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The 6th Circle’s high-level ranged magic exploded in the woods, the feet of the raid team that were moving in hiding were tied all at once.

“Kuaa, heal, heal!”

“Don’t scream, hold on! You’re going to get caught running around!”

“Damn it! We’ll die and we haven’t even started yet!”

Five elite raid members to capture the victory in the guild war.

Their sight within the magic range turned red in an instant.

There were no HP bars, but their field of view had turned red, so if it remained as it was, they would die soon.

“Ah, damn it!! Healer! Do something! Are we going to die like this?”

The little mage behind them was already crawling on the ground. Five seconds before the wide-area magic disappeared, they would surely die.

“Please! Hurry up!”

At that moment, a sword fell from the sky.

It was the Saint’s Sword!

A majestic translucent sword emitting green light. And the voice from inside it was warm and refreshing.

“Come here quickly!”

“Oh, sister! Damn, I want you to use it soon from next time.”

“I’m sorry. Wide area healing takes a long time to cast…

“It’s alright, it’s alright. Since no one is dead. Anyway, thank you.”

When a woman in a white veil was embarrassed, a man with a double sword struck her hand. There’s nothing good about ringing your sister. Above all, it is encouraging that no one died.

“We just need to get out of this forest and we can catch it. Then this war will end as it is..”

“I don’t think he’s caught.”


At the end of the duration of the ranged magic, anxiety grew as their health recovered to some extent.

“If we were their target, they would have already rushed at us. I think we only got caught by magic that was cast randomly. We will continue the operation.”

The man with the shield spoke confidently. It looked pretty good, but that’s all. There is no way they could have been seen when they themselves were in a position of just exiting the forest.

“How’s your health?”

“Recovery is complete.

“Let’s get going. We have to catch up to our other guild members.”

The man with the shield clenched his teeth.

They were the five elite members at an important point in the guild war. It was not a big number, but it was still good enough. Without them, the entire guild will be in a difficult position. In addition, he was the one who proposed this surprise attack.

If they failed, how would he face their guild master? No, before that, they must succeed in order to repay the sacrifices of other guild members.

“Then let’s go-ugh!”

Chwiik, the mage holding an orb while trying to stand up flew back.

“Hmm?”

What? It was a strange movement.

Slideback? Do mages have a skill that allows them to slide backwards?

He did not jump. The body of the mage, who flew back, laid on the floor as it was. The elite raid members confusedly looked at each other .

“Hey, what are you doing? We have no time to play around.”

The head of the man approaching the mage burst.

They did not understand the situation, but at least the visible evidence suggested danger.

Blood flowed , and the body turned gray.

It was an instant death.


“What! An enemy?”

“Where? Unni! Try to detect it!”

“I can’t! The warlock and ranger have been hit… First, I’ll cast mass protection. Get behind me-”

The words got cut off.

The white veil was dreadfully stained with blood, and the whole body turned rigid as if a huge tree had fallen , the woman’s body fell backward.

But it was not dead people who felt fear. It was those who survived, seeing the corpse of their companions, who were truly terrified.

Where? How did they attack??

“Ppa, quickly get behind me! Watch out, there is something!!”

The man raised his shield. How hard was it to be a tanker? Even if you didn’t understand what was happening, your body would react first.

At least, if you knew the direction where the body fell, you could judge where the attack came from and react accordingly.

‘Did they attack the ones who could use detection or protection magic? Or did they aim for people with low health first?’

Holding a shield and looking ahead, nothing caught his eyes.

“C-captain! Sound! I heard a sound.” a player holding two swords rushed to the team captain holding a shield.

“Sound?”

“Over there, in that direction”, Kaang-! Something hit the shield and came out from the back of the head of the player holding two swords.

His grotesque exploding head instantly turned to dust and disappeared.

“Euk.”

It was a scene that seemed to be from a nightmare, but he was not interested in the body that turned gray. Only after listening to the player holding two swords was the team captain able to hear the sound.

Taaang——.

‘Gun?’


The marks on the shield and the sound. The team captain could not help but think.

“Nonsense.”

As soon as he raised his head, his vision went out.

At the edge of the forest, there were five corpses that had turned into dust.

From a shooting position!

“Fire!”

There is only one person in the shooting range.

‘This is the beginning.’

The eyes of Leeha, focused on the target and flashed.

‘Next shot.’

Leeha barely hung the tip of his index finger on the trigger and adjusted his breathing.

“Huuu……

The quietness of this moment when you held your breath, the taste of tension in your mouth. The tongue softly attached to the roof of the mouth and the hollow floor calms the mind.

The beat of the heart slowly rising.

Except for the navy divers, the soldier who holds his most breath the most is probably a sniper.

However, there is no time for other thoughts.

The tip of his finger was twitching.

Taaang–!

After the bullet fired, the smell and the sound of the gunpowder hung in the air, and there was a heavy recoil that shook the entire body, awakened brain cells.

‘I like this feeling.’

Leeha remembered his childhood memories.

There was nothing he hadn’t done because of his father, who wanted to give his son a lot of experience. When he was young he tried horseback riding, golf, piano, fishing, and spearheading, but what attracted him the most was shooting.

At first, he just enjoyed the tranquility and tension of the moment of concentration, and the pleasure that the fired shot accurately hit the target.

Additionally, as the distance of the target increased and the difficulty of shooting increased, the pleasure also increased. It was even more fun when you used live ammunition.

‘The pistol was good, too. It’s small, but the feeling in my hands is really good. Ah! The bolt-action gunshot in the United States was also amazing.’

I was so absorbed that when I was in college I saved the money I earned from a part-time job to go to the US to shoot.

Would your friends tell you to stop?

“Hey man! You should go to the army!”

That was the correct answer.

In the Republic of Korea, where it was impossible to own firearms individually, there were not many paths for gun masters.

‘Now, now… One last shot.’

Taaang一!

All twenty shots were over. Leaving that excitement behind, Leeha set up the gun while ensuring that the safety of the gun was on.

Captain Kijung Ilgon said as he descended the stairs,“Sergeant Ha, you crazy guy. Did you know that you got a full round of bullseye again?”

“Sergeant Ha Leeha! I knew it while shooting. It’s always a bullseye, but, isn’t it stranger when it’s not a bullseye?”

Looking at the humming Leeha, captain Kijung stuck his tongue out.

He was a noncommissioned officer and was included in the battalion sniper, and he had never missed a bullseye since then.

The reason why he recommended the non-commissioned officer was because of his ridiculous shooting skills. How many times have you missed so far? No, have you missed any?

At least, captain Kijung had never seen anything like that.

In fact, it was not unusual to shoot 20 out of 20 shots on a regular squad.

The target, which appeared in a fixed manner, was a score that was often shown to even newly enlisted private soldiers.

But what about 200 shots out of 200 shots?

What about 2,000 shots out of 2,000 shots?

So these days, he shoots at 500m and 700m, but the same goes for that. Not even one shot is missed.

At this point, it was not a question of whether he was good at shooting or not. Isn’t it beyond the human category? I’m curious about that.

However, whether Captain Kijung was surprised or not, Leeha only smiled lightly and did not respond much.

It was only natural from his point of view, from when he was a kid to when he first held an air gun.

“Ah, really tired, tired..”

“Right. Thank you.”

“I’ll print out the results, so you can organize them with the ballistics result and write a report.”

“Yes, captain.”

“Still, I’m glad to have you Leeha. Sooner or later, special soldiers, marines and snipers will be evaluated for their combat abilities.”

Captain Kijung, who was walking out of the shooting range with Leeha, spoke.

Leeha belonged to a league of his own.

The better he performed and Leeha showed off his skills, the brighter his position would be.

“I don’t know. There are guns and textbooks… It’s a place that has been operating snipers for decades in the first place..”

“Hey, you might not know why, but you have to win unconditionally.”

“Sergeant Ha Leeha, I will do my best!”

Two people giggled as they went down the firing range to get their cartridges and extra ammunition, and the only soldier who was following them was a driver because it was a sniper’s shooting range.

“Should we go home and get a beer later?”

“I’ll go if you’re paying..”

“Hey, you get more pay than me! They didn’t even pay my overtime last month!”

“Hey, don’t you have a sergeant’s salary? Didn’t you get promoted this year?”

How many hundred times had they come to the shooting range? The two began to clean up, exchanging grievances with a flawless attitude. This was a very common appearance.

“ Oh really. If I do it a couple more times, I’ll be relieved. Oh right. You know you haven’t even put on a promotion jaw yet?”

“Oh, have you still forgotten that? Then, today I’d go-”

And accidents always pop up in everyday life..

Kwaaaaang—!

The bombardment thrown by Captain Chung was scared for the following to accept, and an explosion occurred.

“Kahak–！”

The flame was not big, but the pressure was strong.

After being pushed out, captain Chung rolled over on the ground, and Leeha got pushed back and hit the old Jeep.

Leeha lost consciousness due to the strong shock .

‘Is it a dream?’

I feel like my eyelids are stuck. What happened to me? But coherent thoughts are cut off by pain.

“Puhaak-. Gahaat.”

There’s so much pain that you can’t even scream properly, your diaphragm shrinks in pain, making it difficult to breathe. No, it may be because of the tube inserted in his nose and mouth that made it difficult to breathe.

Thanks to the machines that force the lungs to move, he couldn’t breathe. On the contrary, I felt like I was going to die from the pain of those machines.

‘W- what? Come on? Help me! Help me!’

I couldn’t speak.

Wouldn’t it be a struggle to move your fingers? He thought he struggled tremendously, but his body lying on the bed was calm.

Urine was flowing out of the tube connected to the pepper. I didn’t even feel it doing this.

I only knew when I saw a bucket next to my bed filled with yellow water.

‘What the hell is this? What happened??’

How much time had passed? What happened to my body? I cannot turn my head more than 10 degrees to either side.

It seemed that it would be quicker to wait for the reunification with North Korea to move his neck.

As if there was no such concept in the beginning of erecting the waist, the following will was not conveyed.

How much does your finger barely procrastinate? However, it is not the intended movement like when the trigger is pulled, but only wriggling when the force is given enough to shake the whole body.

‘My body… Oh, the hospital? Operation?’

Only then came the memory of the accident.

Captain Chung threw a bullet. It was full of bullets just before disposal. And he himself got it.

What happened the moment you received it?

‘An explosion .. Yeah, obviously… An explosion ’

What is the probability of such an accident occurring? Neither old black powder nor nitroglycerin, nor modern ammunition exploded with aging.

No, is it a bit unreasonable to say modern?

Since it was made in the 1990s, 40 years have already passed. But, that’s..

“M-Mom.”

Leeha forcefully opened his mouth.

However, the voice did not come out loud even though Lee Hwa squeezed his vocal cords like a mop.

Periodic and monotonous beeps filled the space in the machine that checked the heart rate and blood pressure.

‘Nonsense. Why is this happening to me.’

The bare eyelids became heavy again.

Regardless of the following mentality, his body was forcing him to sleep for recovery.

‘I don’t want to fall asleep- I just fell asleep in the intensive care unit.

I prayed and prayed again and again that this is a dream, please let this be a dream, before my consciousness faded.

(To be continued…)
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“T-Then he won’t be able to walk?”

“Well, that, for now.”

The doctor blurred his words.

The injury in which nerve cells between C7 and C8 of the spine were cut off was enough to cripple the strong and sturdy young man.

“For now? Then he would be able to after surgery?”

“It’s not completely impossible, but the money required is…”

“Doctor! Please, please save my child! I will pay as much money as I can. How much will it cost? How much do you need? If I withdraw everything I have been saving-”

The middle-aged woman sitting on a small chair knelt on the floor and grabbed the doctor’s coat.

It took only about 3 seconds, for the hope of her son being able to walk again, to turn into despair.

“About 2 billion.”

“…Yes?”

“Sorry.”

“N-No. How much?”

“It’s about… 2 billion.”

The doctor sighed and the middle-aged woman closed her eyes.

“2 billion… That’s…”

“It is an operation that is impossible in Korea. In Germany… No, it’s complicated to explain in detail. Anyway, the estimated amount is around 2 billion, but in fact, it may cost more. What I should say to you is 2.5 billion, no… It may even cost more than 3 billion.”

In 2030, when virtual reality was created and self-driving cars traveled on the highway, money was still precious, and outstanding doctors and medicine even more so.

The doctor no longer spoke, and the middle-aged woman loosened the strength of her hands and cried.

“Sorry.”


The doctor apologized as if he had done something wrong. 2 billion. That was a huge sum, how could a small house save 2 billion for the operation?

It was a military accident, so at first, the doctor thought that the government would provide support for them and he took a few steps to find out.

However, he got rejected. In the process of transferring the patient from the Armed Forces Hospital to the University Hospital, he even met a person in charge of the Ministry of National Defense directly, but it was useless.

“Why not?”

The doctor went ahead and criticized them.

“The victim will be fined for the negligence of public affairs. According to the testimony of a soldier at the scene, he saw that the victim moved the ammunition carelessly. They were joking and playing.”

A Department of Defense spokesman said while scratching his head.

“Then.”

However, the doctor himself had never seen the scene and couldn’t argue with the words of the eyewitness.

Once Leeha hears this. He didn’t drop the bullets, and there was no external shock, but it was labeled as ‘Carelessness of the parties’.

“Anyway, the pension or compensation will be paid properly, so you don’t have to worry about it.”

“How can I not care? The young man became an invalid!”

“So, aren’t you saying that we need to pay for the cost of this surgery?”

“Ha.”

The doctor yelled at the Department of Defense spokesman, but it was useless.

The military pension and disability compensation received as a lump sum has already been used to pay for this operation.

At the very least, the doctor had decided that the victim was only short by a small amount, and proceeded with the operation. If they had less money, Leeha might have been moved back to the Armed Forces Hospital, or the surgery may have been delayed until they were able to pay the bill. In any case, various payments will be given to the hospital as soon as compensation is deposited into Leeha’s bankbook.

“Then I’ll get going.”

The doctor, after recalling his interaction with the Department of Defense spokesman who had no sympathy, comfort, or even any explanation for the accident, got up from his seat with a sad expression.

“Gosh.”


In the consultation room where doctors and nurses went out, the middle-aged woman was lying on the floor and didn’t know how to stand up.

“My Leeha. My Leeha.”

To: Sergeant(Reserve) Ha Leeha，29y/o Subject: Notification of Compensation payment

1.	We wish you peace in your home.

2.	You were in an accident while in military service. We will notify you that all medical services have been properly settled, and all the compensation calculation procedures have been completed.

3.	However, you are judged to be able to engage in labor due to the maintenance of both arms, face, and brain functions (see Attachment 1), and the negligence of the person involved in the accident is considerably acknowledged (see Attachment 2). You cannot register for mental and physical disability higher than level 7.

4. 	Therefore, mental and physical disability payment compensation will be at Level 7. However, we regret to inform you that the registration for a person of national merit and veterans compensation has not been approved.

5.	For the above reasons, according to Article 23 of the Military Pension Act (variable pension), 397,000 won is paid monthly.

“Leeha. My Leeha.”

397,000 won per month in exchange for all the senses of the lower body.

Contrary to the statement in the official letter, it would not be easy to have peace at home. The short official letter tore the heart of the reader.

There will not be many people who would blame Leeha even if he went on a rampage after opening his eyes.

—-

Ttok, ttok, ttok.

Leeha did not respond to the harsh knocking sound.

“This is a courier. Is there Ha Leeha-ssi? Ha Leeha-ssi!”

Leeha laid down and did not want to answer. He hated answering and going to the front door.

“Ha Leeha-ssi? Ha Leeha-ssi!”

‘Just go.’

Most of all, he didn’t remember buying anything that could come by courier.


No, he hadn’t bought anything recently, far from buying anything, he hated going outside, moving, eating, and even breathing.

When he was a sergeant, he had a sturdy physique.

‘Did he leave?’ When Leeha, who was lying down, finally found peace, he heard another buzzing sound outside the front door.

‘There’s another?’ He heard a sound that he couldn’t understand properly and then heard another knock on the front door.

“Hyung! Leeha hyung! I know you are there! Can you open the door? If you’re doing something weird by yourself, put on your pants quickly! I will open in just 10 seconds!”

‘Shit… What the hell is he saying?’ Leeha, who was lying down, barely raised his upper body.

What did he mean by ‘doing something weird’ and ‘putt on your pants’? It’s too harsh of a joke for someone with a disabled lower body.

Leeha had to endure it because Kijung was a close cousin, and if it were someone else, Leeha would have run them over with a wheelchair.

The door opened with the sound of a door lock opening while Leeha was crawling towards his wheelchair.

An installation engineer with a bright and cheerful expression appeared with an embarrassed face.

“Hyung! I knew you were here. Mister, please install that over there.”

Kijung pointed the location to the installer while entering the house. He has never bought something like this, and it’s pretty much bigger than a refrigerator box, so it’s just absurd.

“What is it? Mister, what is that?”

“That’s-”

“I’ll explain, just install it quickly.”

“Yes.”

Kijung stopped talking to the installation engineer and approached Leeha who was in a mermaid-like posture with only his upper body in bed. With the natural cooperation of the two, Leeha was sat in the wheelchair.

“What is it, Kijung? I’m not in the mood to play.”

“Once again, you’re depressed. Shouldn’t I come here to help you feel better? Can people be like this every day? You have to get some air to be healthy.”

Kijung pushed the wheelchair and opened the door to the balcony, the world outside the transparent window, where cool wind blows. However, it was now too scary and rough for Leeha to live.

“How can I live healthily with this body?”

Of course, Leeha also knew that many people live more difficult lives, however, he was having difficulties adapting to such a world.

No, most of all, he couldn’t admit and accept his condition.

“Umm… You know me well, hyung. Ppuing ppuing?”

“You’re so excitable.”

Leeha snorted and shook his head.

‘This guy is also suffering because of me.’

While thinking that, Leeha listened to Kijung.

For Leeha and his mother, who lived in disgrace, only Kijung visited whenever he had time.

Since Leeha knew that Kijung had good intentions, he couldn’t treat him coldly.

“So what is that?”

“Are you curious? Are you curious?”

Kijung moved to a place near an installer who was sweating while pushing the wheelchair.

What came out of the box was a huge, chair-like object.

‘Is this something like an extremely luxurious massage chair?’

“Virtual Reality Connector?”

Leeha looked up at Kijung with an embarrassed expression. 

‘What is a Virtual Reality Connector doing here? The price is quite… expensive. If I had that kind of money, I would just save it. But this guy has so much money, so this.’

“No, no. It’s not a normal connector. It’s perfect for playing 『Middle Earth』.”

“Middle… What? So that’s… for gaming.”

Kijung raised his finger and said proudly, but with an expression more serious than Leeha.

“Not just a normal game! 『Middle Earth』 has a Virtual reality game market share of 31% and the total number of subscribers worldwide exceeded 100 million in 4 months after its launch! It was so hard to convince aunty.”

“What do you mean? Why are you bringing mom into this?”

Kijung cared about Leeha, but Leeha’s mom cared more about him than Kijung ever would.

“I asked aunty to buy it for me.”

Kijung’s words made Leeha realize.

“My mom? Hey! Are you crazy? What are you talking about! You want me to play right now while knowing our situation clearly? You mean you urged mom to buy a game machine?”

“Oh? No, hyung, not that-”

“Is it not? Mom is already working so hard to take care of her stupid son and you want me to play games?”

Leeha’s pleasant and optimistic nature disappeared along with the senses of his lower body. Leeha took everything negatively and he sharply shouted at Kijung with bloodshot eyes.

How could he not? Knowing clearly the circumstances of Leeha’s family, Kijung convinced Leeha’s mother to buy something like this.

“Listen to me, hyung. Would I ask you to only play a game? 『Middle Earth』! Do you think I persuaded aunty without thinking? She said that you are not able to find a job! But with 『Middle Earth』 you can make money while playing!”

Leeha was angry, but he couldn’t push it anymore.

“Come on, what can a kid like you know?”

“I know you’re angry, but believe me. If you just log in, your heart will be unburdened.”

“… Haaaa. All right, then. What’s the point of arguing with you?”

Leeha barely pressed down his boiling anger.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha knew how popular the game 『Middle Earth』 was. The only thing he did after getting discharged from the hospital was watching TV, as he was not able to go outside. The Virtual reality game 『Middle Earth』, in fact, was not just a game. Goople, its developer and manager, proclaimed 『Middle Earth』 as the “5th Industrial Revolution”, and that’s something that most economists also admit.

The realization of all senses, a single integrated server around the world, a uniform language in the game, and 5 days in the game was only a day in reality. The list goes on. This single game alone removed the language, geographical, and time barriers. In other words, it created a new world in the game.

Harvard University is already undergoing formal procedures for forming the 『Middle Earth Aelstock City Branch』, and the Spanish Football Association Primera Liga broadcasts on 『Middle Earth-Primera Liga』 using Middle Earth skills and action cams. They said that they were in the process of obtaining confirmation to claim the rightful ownership of 『Middle Earth-Primera Liga』.

 It has not been implemented in areas requiring confidentiality such as meetings of major companies and national policies, but many areas such as education, creation, and travel were being prepared through 『Middle Earth』. A virtual world beyond games.

In just four months of opening, nearly half of the world was already playing 『Middle Earth』 so the interest derived from it was inevitably complicated.

The power in reality became the power in the game and the power in the game became the power in reality.

In other words, 『Middle Earth』s money was real money.

“… Uh, there… Installation is complete. If you are not going to try it now, I will leave the manual here.”

The foot of the installation engineer, who was standing awkwardly after hearing an unexpected argument between the cousins, was wiggling.

Leeha had a frosty expression after the fight. He looked at the virtual reality connector.

‘If I connect, I will change my mind? It’s also possible to make money while playing?’

After sending Kijung and the installation engineer out, he was able to calmly think about it after struggling for a while.

That makes sense, 『Middle Earth』 appeared frequently on in-game channels as well as public news despite being released only 4 months ago.

Just yesterday, he had heard in the news that a long sword, that had an odd name, had been traded for 100 million won. Of course, it was not that there were no transactions that were in the billions in other games, however 『Middle Earth』 was a new game that had been around for only four months.

‘There are not many experts yet, and the exchange rate is still unstable, but it will gradually stabilize. Surely it would be nice for me. I am not able to find a job. I would rather concentrate on work to forget this cruel fate, but the reality is harsh.

Especially for the disabled and worse if it’s in the lower body.

‘I can’t even get a normal job anyway and I have a lot of time, if I can make money…’

If I can make money in-game, it would be worth a try.’

He looked at the strategy book prepared by Kijung and on the first page, was a memo with a written note.

-When you connect, whisper to “Master Kay”!


After that, it was about the game. It was ridiculously crude to even call it a strategy book. It was just what Kijung felt while playing the game, and the most recent rumors that he had heard.

He wanted to try it because the motto of 『Middle Earth』 was ‘A world of dreams, adventures, and fantasy, another Earth.’

In the world of adventure and fantasy, it wouldn’t be fun if you already knew everything because of a single strategy book, would it? How strong could you get?

‘I will give it a try and get a refund later. Yes, let’s do that.. ’

Leeha put down the note Kijung gave him.

Let’s try it first! If I don’t think it’s going to be worth the money, I can get a refund!

Leeha moved from the wheelchair to the virtual reality gear with a groan.

“What is this? Why did they make it so unfriendly to disabled people?”

Leeha’s body was finally fitted to the virtual reality connector dedicated to 『Middle Earth』, after hitting something with his mouth.

When he pressed the play button near the handle with his body lying comfortably, he felt something resonate within his head.

At that moment, the house that was less than 11 pyeong disappeared.

“Waah!”

Suddenly, Leeha felt like he was falling, but after a while, he was standing in the dark.

“This is?”

He was naked, with two feet that stood firmly on the floor.

『Strangers are always welcome! May God bless you for stepping into Middle Earth!』

Waaaak, light appeared, but what surprised him even more than the sudden light was the voice of a woman.

“Wait! Wait!”

There was no time to feel the joy of standing on two legs, as Leehaa hurriedly covered his thighs and stood. His weapon should not be seen by others, especially a woman with a pretty voice. However, he had only heard the voice, while he could not see the owner of the voice.

『Male strangers from Northeast Asia always start with the same pose! Yo! I’ve seen it a million times already, so don’t worry! I am just a helper in making your avatar live on Middle Earth.』


“Is it artificial intelligence??”

『It’s better than you thought, right?』, Leeha received an immediate answer with a human reaction. It must have been asked this question a lot of times already.

Goople’s AI was more human than humans.

『So, could you tell me what name you would like to use in Middle Earth?』

Nickname, did Kijung proudly shout “Master Kay” to this question? That must have been embarrassing.

If it were a game, it would have been nice to create a new nickname, but it didn’t feel like a game right now.

The sensation he felt in his lower body felt real, he really felt like he was the one standing. It wasn’t really difficult to choose a nickname.

“Leeha. No, Ha Leeha.”

『‘HaLeehaLee, is that correct?』

“‘One more time! Ha Leeha not HaLeeHalee!”

『It’s a funny name, but it’s a pity. 

‘Ha Leeha’, is that correct?』

“That’s right.”

The rumbling sound effect made the following mood a little awkward, but at least one thing was certain. Leeha was excited, he was standing on two legs, trying to meet a new world.

『Good，HaleeHalee. What kind of race would you like to live in Middle Earth?』

“It’s Ha Leeha, not HaleeHalee.”

Once again, he heard a burst of laughter. Is this really artificial intelligence? Was it really not human?

He had also played games with so-called artificial intelligence and virtual reality.

Anyway, for young men, especially young men in Korea, things like playing games cannot be removed.

It’s too overwhelming to be overwhelmed with the words “but this is a different dimension?”


I can’t see my figure and I can only hear the voice, so it feels more realistic.

“What races are there?”

『There are five races that strangers can choose from: Human, wood Elf, lizardia, Giant, and Catfolk.』

“There’s everything.”

Lizardia, a lizard-like human covered in scales.. Leeha did not like its appearance, especially the tail.

Basically, his reasoning was that humans didn’t have a tail, so how can they use the tail? Would the tail move when they would shake their ass?

It is written that Catfolk can walk as bipeds or quadrupeds interchangeably.

‘It’s a game, but the fact is that humans walking on all fours is a little… …

The huge and hard-looking giants, and the thin and nature-friendly Wood Elves.

Leeha looked back and forth between each race and eventually chose the human race.

“Human.”

『Human. Then are you satisfied with your appearance?』

“Huh? If I’m not satisfied? Can I change it?”

『Basic corrections such as simple scar correction, eye correction, and blemish removal, as well as partial correction of height and weight are possible. Although you can not change your gender! Oh, you can’t change your nationality either. In Middle Earth, there are more nationalities than races, so please don’t fight each other!』

“It’s not a selfie correction app, and I don’t really need that. I will just stay as is.”

I didn’t have any special confidence in my appearance, but I didn’t want to grow taller. It still felt like the real thing, not a game.

『Human male, Ha Leeha, a stranger to Middle Earth. Congratulations on taking your first steps. I’m hoping you get everything you want through Middle Earth-!!』

 The world turned dark, to the point where he could not see where he was standing, and then became bright in an instant.

“Hwaaaah!”

He heard it clearly in the gap of his scream.

『I look forward to seeing you again.』.

“Kuwaak!”

It felt like he fell from a height of 5 stories, but there was no pain in his body. He heard laughter around him, but it was only for a short time, and it soon became silent.

It was one of the common reactions of beginners falling into Middle Earth.

“Oh my gosh… Is this a game?”

It’s definitely different. Leeha looked around, even if cameras suddenly popped out and said, ‘This is actually reality!’, he would believe it.

The feeling of cold water droplets from the occasional fountain splashes, sore eyes when facing the sun, the palm of the hand, and the chest that swells when you inhale. And two legs, legs that moved in and out of the wheelchair, which was useless. Toes wriggling outside old sandals. A calf that protrudes when the bracket is raised. The muscles of the thigh become stiff when you take the riding position.

No one really knew this feeling. Leeha unknowingly shed tears, and it was only a little later that he noticed the fact that tears were flowing in the game as well.

“Are you so impressed! I met so many people at Candle Castle, but this is the first time I’ve ever seen such a pure stranger!”

“I was just surprised. Who are you?”

At the sound suddenly heard from behind, Leeha looked behind him in a hurry. It was quite a long time since he had been disabled in the lower body. His movement while turning around felt awkward.

“I am the one who helps the strangers adjust to Middle Earth.”

‘NPC’. Leeha recalled the poor strategy book Kijung left. The starting village was random, but wherever the player falls, the route at the beginning of the game was similar.

There are NPCs that help beginners, interact with those NPCs, choose a job, and go to the beginner hunting ground. It was said that the beginning of the true Middle Earth was after choosing a class. In other words, it was easy to recognize that the man who looked like an Englishman talking to himself was an NPC.

“Can you walk?”

“Yes, I can.”

“Walking is no problem. But you should be careful while/about running. Humans cannot run indefinitely.”

“Well, that’s right.”

It’s a reference to the existence of stamina.

Leeha also knew about it. Since it was Goople’s goal to make it as realistic as possible, they did not want to show it in-game.

When playing, the HP and MP bar is like a normal game, but it can’t be checked immediately. Furthermore, there were many people who said that they were quite unkind because they made things like stamina and vitality invisible even in numbers. On the contrary, there were many people who liked it as true freedom and true virtual reality.

(To be continued…)
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“Good! If you understand, move on. Can you see that girl over there?”

“Yes.”

The girl wore a ruffled apron and held a woven tube basket that contained apples.

“If you want to buy an apple, you can buy it from that girl. But what if you suddenly grab the girl’s breasts?”

“Hmm? What? What do you mean grab her breasts?”

The conversation with the NPC is realistic but why did he make that example?

“At first the girl won’t talk to you, after apologizing she will sell you 3 apples for 10 coppers when initially you can buy an apple for 3 coppers. But what would happen if keep repeating that behavior? Right, you might notice that you are having difficulties living at Candle Castle. That’s because merchants exchange news quickly and no one will be trading with you.”

Touching her chest will only raise the price of the apple a little.

The thought that the penalty for touching her breast is not a bad deal passed through Leeha’s head. 

‘No, no, that’s a crime.’

“If it gets worse, will I get a bounty?”

“Right! It’s good that you’re a quick learner!”

Wouldn’t the reaction of the man clapping probably go into an interaction with the NPC? If so, Leeha’s familiarity with the male NPC would have increased.

‘It’s only a tutorial, so what will I get by getting close to the ajussi who explains the game system?’

Leeha heard additional explanations after that.

It’s definitely a surprising virtual reality, and it’s an interesting game world, but he was not here to enjoy it. He has to make money and to do that, he must not miss information.

“Next you will be taught how to survive, go to the training center in the north. Use the compass on your “bag” and you will be able to get there.”

The man nodded as if satisfied with his explanation. And then silence followed.

“Anything more to explain? Please tell me…

“Would you like to hear my story from scratch?”


“No, no.”

He even tried something that others wouldn’t do, but he did not get anything.

‘Is there no special gift? I heard it is hard to get.’

There was a post on an external bulletin board saying that if you listen to the stories of NPCs to the end, they give you a small gift. That’s why he listened carefully, but it doesn’t seem like this NPC gave any. In fact, it is not even clear who will give what.

For Middle Earth, there is no information provided by game companies! Everything has to be explored and discovered by users. The problem is that Goople doesn’t even provide information or basic guidance on jobs. Unexplored areas are not yet recorded, and it is rumored that even now, four months after the release of the game, less than a fifth of the entire world has been explored. The good news is that the maps for the regions that the users have explored are updated. It is not possible to know how big the area of the whole Middle Earth is, so it is just a rough estimate.

‘Among them, there are only a few areas where users can go. There were rumors that half of the explored area was discovered by a single person, even when there are a lot of people in the community who are just exploring like crazy.’

Leeha stopped after walking a few steps. A thrilling sensation suddenly came to him.

“Haha. To ‘walk’ to the north.” ‘Is this what makes me laugh after all?’ The emotions of Leeha shooting his first shot came to his mind. The joy of moving both legs, a natural joy.

“Yes, move, move!”

Leeha jumped and ran in place.

“Wahahaha. Haha, hahaha.”

The smile did not disappear from Leeha’s face after running again and again. Of course, the only thing people can see is a person wearing beggar’s clothes, that is laughing and running around like a crazy person.

“What’s that?”

“Isn’t he crazy?”

“I used to do that when I was a beginner, but he’s worse.”

“Hey, be careful. If you bumped into someone you might get into a fight.”

However, Leeha was so focused that he did not see and hear the people who pointed, shouted, and cursed at him.

“Haa, haa. Uwahhh, breathe too!! It’s a game but I’m out of breath. Haa, haa.”

The feeling of being out of breath and exhausting his stamina. Even the snort is real. Leeha looked around while adjusting his breathing. He saw people who are screaming while looking for a party, people trading with other people, and people going somewhere. There were various activities, but he did not see people who are running.

“Well, those people will walk and run when they are not in-game.”


It’s amazing, but there aren’t any people who are obsessed with movement even in the game. Leeha adjusted his breathing, no, his breathing gradually cleared without him even realizing it.

“If I stay still, will I recover automatically? Haa.”

He loosened his ankles, keeping the feeling of the joint spinning round and round, and then he ran again.

‘Wahahaha. I can run! I can run!’

From this end to the end of Candle Castle. Leeha ran and ran along the main road, it was like he played the game only to run. When his stamina dropped, he stops and rests and runs again after recovering, and then stops and runs again.

“Haa. Haa. Amazing.”

Leeha breathed down on his knees. How many times have I been running like this already? I don’t remember. The joy of being able to run again.

“Where am I?”

Leeha looked around while resting. Medieval European-style houses and pastel-tone roofs were visible, and granite warehouse-like buildings stood out.

He didn’t know where he was, but it didn’t matter to him.

‘Anyway, according to the beginner tutorial, the place I have to visit is the training center in the north. If I can go back to the central fountain from here, I can visit it anytime.’

“Good，let’s give it a go again. Hahaha.”

Leeha ran to the plaza where he can see the central fountain.

A new hologram window appeared in front of his eyes while he was running around and looking for the little lady selling apples while supporting her chin.

“Huh?”

『Achievement: Those who know the joy of running (E+)』

Congratulations! You have consumed 100% of your stamina 10 times in a row. You’re not a marathoner, right? You who know the joy of running, please visit every corner of Middle Earth!

Reward: Agility +3, stamina +3, skill: Runners High.

『Skill: Runner’s High』 learned.

‘What’s this? Achievement? An achievement? Wasn’t this something you get after doing something special? Can you get achievements this way, when I just started playing?’


However, Leeha could understand by looking at the phrase.

“In an emergency, there may be a situation where you run until the stamina runs out once or twice, but to consume 100% stamina 10 times in a row? Such a person would not be common.”

‘Haha, good, good. It’s like this game is made for me, isn’t it?’

There are many people in the central fountain, but how many people have this achievement?

Leeha smiled and opened his skill window in anticipation of what else will come out as a reward for the achievement.

『Beginner Runner’s High(Passive )(Lv.1)』

Description: You can run faster! Automatically activated at 0% of stamina

Effect: Can run without stamina consumption for 5 minutes, running speed increases by 1%

“Hmmm… Is it good or not?”

Leeha did not know. Of course, as he continued running through the village, he realized that the stamina recovered quickly, but if it wasn’t for his experience, would there be a situation where his stamina is emptied to zero.

‘Well, it would be better than nothing.’

Still, it’s a skill, and it wouldn’t be useless. Leeha opened his bag as he felt excited.

The Inventory window appeared in the air.

However, it did not look like other games that were divided and sorted, he can only see a black space inside the bag and the compass laid in the lower right corner of the bag. It’s ridiculously inconvenient in comparison to games where items are usually arranged from the top left.

‘If there is a lot of stuff, I wouldn’t know what’s in the bag.’

Leeha took out the compass and thought that it would be very difficult for players who did not know how to read the compass, especially in the beginner’s village.

‘It doesn’t matter because I learned how to read a compass in the army. Oh, I have whisper Kijung.’

Leeha, who was walking to the training ground remembered Kijung.

Considering that there was a discussion in the early stages of the development of Middle Earth to eliminate whispers and even the party system in order to increase the reality of the game, it would not be overkill to think that Goople’s obsession for realism is almost morbid.

-Kijung.

-Oh, hyung, you connected!

The voice of Kijung was clearly heard, it felt like talking directly to his head.

-What do you think? Is it good?

There was a lot of meaning in the short question.

It wasn’t able to heal his lower body, but he was touched enough to cause him to tear up.

He hadn’t finished the tutorials yet, but Leeha was looking forward to having fun in the game, and with such a fun and popular game, being able to make money here is surely true.

-Right. Sorry for getting angry earlier.

-I’ve seen you get angry once or twice? I shouldn’t have surprised you, I shouldn’t have done that. But what’s with your ID? Are you promoting Real Name in the Internet System? -What about ‘Master Kay’? What kind of Manhwa protagonist is that?

-Kek, hyung’s name is like a Manhwa character, so we don’t really have much difference, do we? Anyway, did you choose a class? What’s your first job?

-No. I’m going to the training center now. I haven’t been online for that long.

It was explained in Kijung’s strategy book.

Currently, the most popular and fun job in Middle Earth is the mage line.

It is more difficult than that of tankers and melee classes, but mages able to used Flight and Blink which makes them viable and popular.

-Okay，then do it quickly! Whisper me again when you changed jobs. I’ll give you something useful.

-What level are you? Where are you?

-Huhu，it’s like the difference between the sky and the ground.it is a secret. Kuk Kuk

Leeha wasn’t pleased, as Kijung seemed to be laughing at him. He got a little bit irritated.

-Oh, I’ve got an achievement. Keukkeuk.

-Achievement? What achievement? You said you were going to the training center?

-‘Those who know the joy of running’. Do you know what it is? It gave me skills too.

-‘Those who know the joy of running’ What is it? How can a person who hasn’t even changed his job attain a skill-giving achievement

The corner of Leeha’s mouth rose at Kijung’s surprised voice.

If he knew, Kijung could get it right away.

-I’ll tell you later. I have arrived at the training center.

-Huh, okay, hyung, tell me later.

-Kek，okay. I’ll go now. Leeha stopped the whisper.

The letters written on the signboard were the first thing he saw, and they were recognizable. In particular, he can confirm that this is a training center even from the sound from the inside.

“What are you doing there, newbie! Move quickly!”

A middle-aged man wearing an artificial leg screamed and called out.

“Yes!”

“Middle Earth is a battlefield! Do you think someone will wait for you! When a beginner like you is hit, your vision will turn red! Your vision starts to turn red when your HP decreases to less than 50%. If it goes below 5%, it becomes dark red and it will be difficult to see in front of you.”

“Pick up the sword right now! And hit the target!”

“Yes!”

Leeha remembered his military days. It was a rather radical and hard society, but Leeha was more comfortable with this kind of environment. Four months is neither long nor short. Middle Earth has been open for four months but in the beginner village, but there were still many “strangers” in the training center. While avoiding the swinging wooden swords of the other newbies, Leeha moved to an empty space.

‘This should be good.’

Leeha held the wooden sword in front of the scarecrow.

The feel of an oak tree wrapped around his hand. He swung his wooden sword although it was a little crude.

‘Oh?’

Ttak-! Ttak-!

It was just like swinging a stick, but the body moved automatically. Naturally, within the range possible for human joints.

At the same time, he felt his heart beating.

“Can you feel your heart pounding? No matter how talented you are in battle, if you have the will to live in Middle Earth, the “God of Battle” will guide you!”

‘Oh, this is the battle assistance system.’

How would people who have not used any weapons fight? The answer that Goople came up with was a combat assistance system. When wielding or stabbing with a weapon, it finds the appropriate route and makes the avatar move. The arms will move in a trajectory that will not compromise the structure of human joints. Naturally, such assistance systems are also applied when shooting a bow. In particular, finding the best route for the weapon, destructive power at the time of hitting, accuracy of aiming, and speed of swinging were automatically adjusted by probability affected by stats, so you can feel the realism and enjoy the game.

Damn, damn!

“But we can fight without the help of the battlefield god!! As long as you have complete belief in yourself!”

Suddenly, Leeha lost the feeling of his heartbeat as he hit the scarecrow..

The difference between the combat with and without combat assistance system.

Indeed, when he swung the wooden sword with no force, like in reality, there would be no force. But when he swung it with all his might again.

Ttaak.

When using the combat assistance system, more powerful destructive power and repulsion is felt in his grasp.

‘Oho, oho. It’s like this.’

There was a rumor that there is a difference in the probability of dropping items when fighting with the combat assistance system turned off.

Leeha laughed without knowing, he was amazed that he was naturally adapting to Middle Earth.

(To be continued…)
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“Are you doing well, newbies!”

“Yes!”

“No matter how durable a scarecrow is, they still have weak points! When attacking a weak point, the damage becomes greater!”

The training center isn’t just a place to familiarize oneself with combat.

Before dealing with monsters, this place teaches users the basics. The scarecrows’ neck, where the head and torso are connected, glowed a little redder than other parts of the scarecrow. And Leeha is not a fool to not notice it.

“Haa”

Papapak-!

The scarecrow’s neck was broken and its head fell to the ground. The hand feel of hitting the torso and the neck was different.

“Well done! While there are areas that cause serious damage when hit, other areas can cause instakill. Of course, you need to have the sufficient abilities to deal as much damage as possible to cause such an effect, so devote yourself to training!”

There are critical hits and there’s also instakill? Leeha nodded.

Definitely, if reality is gamified there should be weak points that can cause “instakill” when struck.

However, it would still be impossible for level 1 to instakill a level 100 monsters in one shot.

That is the meaning of the words of the drill instructor NPC.

‘Does that mean you can end the hunt in one shot if you reach the required? However, it will not be easy to find and hit those weak points.’

Leeha hit the scarecrow’s torso while following the NPC’s instructions along with the strangers around him.

“Next is the technique! By collecting and managing your energy and mana, you can generate 3 times more power than normal or 5 times more power. Gather your energy and hit it!”

The instructor with an artificial leg screamed, stomping his leg against the stone floor of the training center.

As soon as the instructor’s words ended, a small window opened in front of Leeha’s eyes.

『Beginner’s Heavy Strike』

Description: The art of striking with force. The flow is important.


Effect: 130% of maximum attack power Distance: Melee

Mana ： 30

Cooldown: 10 seconds

‘Gathering strength and striking. Of course, it’s a game, so we also get skills.’

He concentrated on the explanation.

As the NPCs said, in Middle Earth, a lot of hints we’re not given outright.

It’s a skill that hits with force, but the flow is important?

“Heavy Strike!”

“Heavy Strike!”

“Heavy Strike!”

People around him were using Heavy Strike.

The combat assist system was making movements when the users are not ready, and it is obviously a little unnatural, so the strike is not strong.

“I see. That’s the flow. Just think like it’s reality, right?”

What if you use the skill at any time regardless of your movement? It goes against the flow of the body in motion. Then, in the direction that the original skill should go, what if it is used in between attacks?

Leeha did not get swayed by the bustle around him. He slowly hit the scarecrow in the torso diagonally.

“Heavy Strike!!” His arms moved naturally with his shout and he felt his muscles expanding explosively, and there was no change in his form.

A bright light flashed from the smashing wooden sword, Paaang!

“Ohh?!”

Leeha’s wooden sword blew off one of the scarecrow’s arms. Leeha’s strike was strong enough to make his hand twitch.

Rather than 130%, it felt like the strike is 150% to 200% more powerful, and made Leeha thrilled.


“What? How did you do it? The scarecrow’s arm is broken!”

“Looks like only that guy’s Heavy Strike is stronger?”

The movement of users around him stopped.

He had the same shabby clothes, the same wooden sword, but what’s with the different effect? It was natural that they focused their attention on him.

However, Leeha did not stop. Leeha didn’t want to lose the thrilling sensation he had just felt.

This time he struck from left to right.

“Heavy Strike!!!”

From left to right. The red light flashed once again from Leeha’s wooden sword, which was swung forcefully.

Baaang!

“Uwaah!”

“That damage!”

The users that were standing in front of the other scarecrows moved and covered their heads. Wood debris poured out like a pitter-patter of rain.

“Haa, haa……”

Leeha was also surprised himself.

The scarecrow in front of him, no, its whole upper body has already been smashed, and he was looking at its remnants of the scarecrow.

“No way…… Did I do this?”

His arms were burning hot.

This kind of destructive power? He was really moved by the feeling of being a hero.

‘A solid wooden scarecrow… I broke it with a wooden sword. Haha.’

However, there was not much time to be impressed.


Nearby users, who were noisy for a moment, began to gather around him.

“Ohh，amazing! How did you do that?”

“Are you sure you used Heavy Strike? What did you just learn here?”

“Is it really level 1? Please let us know.”

“Awesome. How did the scarecrow get smashed? Share it with us. What did you just do? How did this happen?”

The users surrounded Leeha as they have sparkling eyes of admiration and desire to become stronger in any way.

“Yes? No, that is. I used the skill that we were taught.”

“Skill? Heavy Strike?”

“Yes.”

As Leeha nodded, the eyes of admiration quickly turned into doubts.

“I have used that too..”

“Me too, me too.”

“Other than that. Please tell us how you really did it. It doesn’t resemble Heavy Strike at all.”

“It really is Heavy Strike.”

Of course, it is different from the description. The difference between those who thought of the game as only a game and Leeha was very large.

“Move, move! This is the real “Heavy Strike”!”

And, scrambling users around Leeha moved as the instructor with a prosthetic leg appeared in front of him.

“The natural connection of the body and technique! If you use the same technique, it is up to the user to multiply the effect by 1.3 to 2 times! Combat is not only done with the body! Newbie! Tell me your name!”

He has a prosthetic leg but his eyes were sharp. Leeha looked directly into the instructor’s eyes and answered.

“My name is Ha Leeha-ssi.”

“All of you see and learn Ha Leeha! Use your head! This is the basis of battle!”

As the instructor shouted to everyone with unsatisfied expressions looked at Leeha. The NPC directly mentioned his name and praised him!

A window suddenly popped up in front of his eyes.

『Achievement: Model student at Candle Castle Training Center (E)』

Congratulations! You who have learned all the basics of battle without a single mistake! But don’t be too cocky, because the tallest tree always experiences the strongest winds!

Effect : Strength +3, intellligence +2

‘Oh? Is it another achievement? Awesome, awesome!，

Leeha, who was looking at the explanation of the achievement, quickly hid the window with a wide smile.

‘Don’t be too cocky? The tallest tree always experiences the strongest winds. Well, that’s true. Because nothing good happens when you stand out.’

And in the midst of the users’ uproar, the shout of the instructor with an artificial leg rang out loud.

“What are you looking at! Everyone go back to your positions and practice! Practice! practice is the only way to live!” The shout of an NPC who deals with humans better than humans. The users went back to their scarecrows. Their eyes mixed with envy, suspicion, and jealousy toward Leeha were enough to make him nervous.

‘But, while scaring me like this, 3 strength and 2 intelligence? What, is it a lot or a little?? I’ll have to ask Kijung later.’

Leeha didn’t know how good it was to increase the stats by 2 and 3, but the “Model Student of the Training Center” is an unexpected achievement.

Level 1.

An achievement that can only be obtained when it’s the user’s first time connecting to the game and defeating a scarecrow.

There is also the additional condition of first-time entering the training center, so when users know of the conditions, it’s already too late.

Can you find it in the community? Of course, there is a lot of information in the community. However, information that would be helpful to users is not usually shared. Eventually, you have to get it from a friend or a guild you belong to, but it is too late at that time.

“Huu, huu.”

As he spent time swinging the wooden sword in front of the new scarecrow, the instructor shouted again.

“Those who have learned the basics of battle should move to the next destination! A place where you can develop your true ability and potential, to the Class Tower!”

The other users stopped, they either thought that they would not be able to extract information from Ha Leeha or that the instructor is frightening and left.

But Leeha was different, there is no one who gets benefits and will feel bad.

“Thank you, instructor.”

Leeha wiped away his sweat and said hello to the prosthetic instructor. He wanted to express his gratitude to the NPC who gave him the achievement and was surprised as the expression of the instructor with a prosthetic leg who heard Leeha’s greetings changed slightly.

“Your movements were smooth. Do you know about the sword?”

“No- I do not.”

“I see. When will anyone who knows about swords step into Middle Earth? Haa……. You were quite good, Ha Leeha-kun.”

Should I have said I knew? Leeha just realized that he had missed something important in the conversation. Perhaps the instructor’s words were a trigger to a hidden quest that will start under certain conditions. What would have been the reward? A hidden class? Skill?

Considering the keyword sword, it may give him a weapon that a user can not get as a beginner.

‘I thought he was a real person and answered so quickly!’

Interaction with NPC! He had no choice and he can’t figure out what’s the right answer.

However, all of these were exactly as intended by Goople. Because there is no such thing as an answer with a choice in reality.

“I actually know about the sword can I show you?”

“Haha, thank you for your words, but it’s useless unless you really know the sword. Go ahead and go to the Class Tower to find your way.”

“Eukk……”

He couldn’t take back the words he has already spoken. Even if the target is an NPC.

Should I insist that I really know? However, Leeha also heard the explanation for affinity with an NPC. He predicted that it would be counterproductive without even trying it.

“Oh. That’s too bad. I’m really sorry. Goodbye.”

Leeha left the instructor with a prosthetic leg. Because it was so real, he regretted missing something great.

‘In the future, I have to be especially careful with words. Oh, such a waste!’

(To be continued…)

TL’s notes:

모난 돌은 언제나 정을 맞는 법이니까요! -〉 because angular stones always fit together!

Changed to: tallest tree always experiences the strongest winds.

I’m not really sure how to reword “because angular stones always fit together!” therefore I changed it.

“Tallest tree always experiences the strongest winds” fits the sentence and flows with the first expression well.
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Chapter 6

-Kijung, I got another achievement.

-Huh? What achievement did you get? What’s your level?

– It’s still 1. I got it while hitting the scarecrow at the training camp.

-What?. Is there something like that? What’s the effect? No, didn’t you say you got an achievement that gave a skill before?

Leeha heard Kijung’s voice in his head and he couldn’t hold back his smile. Didn’t you know more about achievements after making the strategy book or something?

-Kek, yes. But it’s different from before. This one gave me 3 strength and 2 intelligence.

-Heol，amazing. It’s like you leveled up once.

-Leveled up once?

-Every time you level up, it gives you five points, this means that hyung is 1 level ahead of others in terms of stats.

-Oh, 5 points per level.

-Yes，try opening your character window. Look for the plus sign.

Leeha opened the character window while listening to Kijung’s voice tickling his head.

Name : Ha Leeha / Race : Human Job : None / Level : 1 (0%) Title : None / Achievement : 2

HP ： 160 / MP ： 50

Stats : Strength 13(+3)， Agility 13(+3), intelligence 12(+2)， Constitution 13(+3)，Mind 10

-It’s surprisingly simple?

-There aren’t many visible information. Stamina and energy can’t be seen anywhere. You have to figure it out on your own and get the feel for it.

Leeha also knew about stamina. That is used when running. But what’s it’s other use?

-What is energy again?


-Simply put, isn’t it your hunger level? When you run out of energy, you won’t be able to recover your HP and MP. Potion is expensive, so you can’t drink it anyway… When you’re a beginner, you just die if you can’t manage your health.

Leeha murmured at Kijung’s explanation.

‘As expected from a game called Middle Earth. It’s like a game for unkindness, literally due to unkindness.’

-Oh, it’s the same for item weight. There are moments where your movement slows down. You have to manage weight as well.

-What do you mean? You can’t see it? You won’t be able to tell your current weight?

-No, you can’t. If you think it’s getting heavy, it’s better to leave your items behind. Leave it at the warehouse. If there’s too many. At least put a marker and pay attention to manage it well.

Every level gives 5 stat points. As a result of his recent achievements, his stats now looked like he leveled up twice. Then, how far is the difference between him and the strongest in Middle Earth? Leeha asked what he was curious about.

-What is the highest level? Who has the highest level?

-I don’t know. Nothing is revealed yet. They say that the highest level of people right now is 200, but I don’t know exactly.

“200?”

Stop. At the end of Kijung’s words, Leeha murmured. 

‘The highest level is 200, four months after opening? Then, what’s the level cap of this game? Given that the level has already exceeded 100 units, the maximum level is likely to be 500 or 1,000. It is not something that you’d like to get with just two achievements, is it?’

Leeha was able to understand this because he was familiar with games. When someone reaches the max level, the difference between a max level and a max level + 1 will be huge. Then what about max level and max level + 2?

-What? Are you already interested in the rankers after only just starting the game? Kukuk, are you going to the class tower now?

-Yes. I’ll go and get a job.

-Don’t mess with anything! It says it’s automatically determined by the algorithm, right?

-I know. I know.

-Good luck. Kijung was hunting so he suddenly lost contact. Leeha lost the tingling sensation in his head so he knew that was the case.

‘I can’t get used to this’ Leeha’s head buzzed and suddenly became quiet, so he was flustered.

“Didn’t they say this is a beginner village?”


Candle Castle was a beginner village, but there were a lot of users with good weapons and armors.

There was a shabby looking person wearing good looking leather armor, a person with a round shield on his wrist who was looking for party members. Leeha was busy looking around like a dog on a walk for the first time, after passing through the fountain square in the center he reached the Class Tower in the south.

And a 5-story stone pagoda that was revealed.

『Class Tower』 Even though the starting village was different, the location of the “Class Tower” was the same, so it was also the place with the most information shared in the Middle Earth community.

“Hello sir.”

Leeha went inside the class tower. People can be seen, as if they were waiting for a party, but the one who spoke to Leeha was the man at the front desk.

“Outlander. Are you here to find out your potential?”

“Thant’s right.”

“Stand on top of that.”

“Okay.”

The man wearing a green robe and holding a long stick instructed Leeha, there is a weak light on the hexagonal circle painted on the stone floor.

“Are you ready?”

“Yes.”

“That’s a good smile. Hope you have luck.”

“Yes?”

Shaaaht- The light from the hexagonal circle enveloped Leeha’s body without receiving an answer. A familiar voice was heard after the blinding light disappeared.

『Chachan! We meet again!』

Similar to the time Leeha created his avatar, he was once again in a space of nothingness. The first thing he did was to make sure he was wearing clothes.

“Ara? We meet again!”

『Isn’t that a joke? Then, what kind of weapon will you, the Candle Castle’s Model Student, choose? Once you have confirmed the weapon you want, your job will be determined, so choose carefully!』


He thought, “Artificial Intelligence is not a joke.”

It’s different from fighting games.

“Wow, I heard that there are a lot of weapons, but this is completely……”

In addition, there were so many things that he couldn’t care about the helper anymore.

Leeha realized the meaning of what Kijung said to pick up the wand without paying attention to other things.

‘Because there are so many, your eyes will turn white.’

Weapons for melee dealers such as Long Sword, Unwoldo, and Bastard Sword.

Tanker armors such as round shield, tower shield, and kite shield.

Weapons for magic dealers such as staff, wands, orbs, and even combs.

Weapons for physical ranged dealers, such as composite bow, longbow, and crossbow.

Healer weapons such as Bibles, crosses, and beads.

In addition, numerous weapons and armors with unknown names were shown floating in the air.

If you hold a sword and shield, you will become a knight, if you hold an axe, you will become a fighter, and if you hold a sword you will become a mercenary or a warrior depending on which sword you hold.

Even with mage class, there are differences such as dealing huge amounts of damage in one shot, slowly kiting and killing, or summoning evil spirits.

Looking at so many items, the Leeha naturally stepped forward.

‘Wand… … Let’s see…’

He even forgot that his lower body was crippled in reality.

‘There is also a shuriken. Is there a job like a ninja?’

There is no way to know how many weapons and jobs there are.

“It doesn’t matter if I just try it right? I will still need to confirm before changing job?”

『Yes, you can try to your heart’s content until you find the one you want!』

The answer came as if she had been waiting.

Leeha grabbed a sword and swung it, and he also raised a bow to shoot. The arrow that flies towards the target. The demonstration was easy due to the combat assistance system but it was difficult to aim and hit manually.

‘The archer system seems to be okay.’

As he was testing the wand with a smile, a weapon came into Leeha’s eyes.

“What? You have something like that? Uh, isn’t Middle Earth a medieval fantasy? Isn’t that a little weird? No, the middle ages would be the middle ages.”

『If you are curious, you can go and touch it!』

Leeha reached out and grabbed the weapon floating in the air. Similar to the mage’s staff or a little shorter.

Length about 1.5m. Weight approx. 4.5 kg. Heavy touch to the hand.

A weapon in which the warmth of wood and the coldness of iron coexist, no firearms.

“This……. Isn’t this a gun?”

Not a modern rifle.

Those who enjoyed FPS games and war games might think that it resembles the American semi-automatic rifle M1 Garand.

‘No. The technology is not that advanced.’

Compared to modern rifles, the M1 Garand cannot be called “advanced technology.” but semi-automatic rifles were a revolution.

The gun he is holding is a much earlier model.

“Is it… … a musket?”

『Do you know what kind of gun it is?』 When asked by the helper, Leeha looked at the gun. Careful but quick hand movements, unfamiliar but familiar touch.

“I’m not sure about the model, but it’s before Pauléon, around 1700……. It’s not a bolt action, not even an afterthought. It is a full-length musket.”

A ‘Flint lock’ method with a gunpowder dish and Flint embedded in the ball. In addition, the lack of space to insert the bullet behind means that you have to push the bullet lead or iron ball into the muzzle.

It’s a gun I’ve seen a lot in movies.

‘No, I saw it in the game, so it’s not really.’

The voice of the artificial intelligence echoed in Leeha’s ears, soaked with emotion.

『As expected, candle Castle’s Model Student! That’s the answer! You know your firearms!』

“Can I shoot this one?”

『Sure! So far, why have you been asking about other swords and bows?』

Karuruk, the artificial intelligence made fun of Leeha. However, Leeha was so excited that he couldn’t even care about it.

‘It’s a full-length musket. Did they implement something like this?’

When he held the bow, an arrow appeared automatically in his inventory. What if you hold a musket?

‘Inventory.’

When Leeha opened his bag, the musket and the set of items came into his eyes.

『Black Powder XI』, 『Iron Ball Bullet XI』, 『Twisted Belt』

“Haha，it is true.”

There is a degree of reality.

Do you really have to use all of the items that a battlefield musket uses?

Leeha felt it absurd but couldn’t afford to argue. He understood that ammunition was quantified, but even gunpowder?

‘Even with bullets, if there is no gunpowder, it means that you won’t be able to fire it. And vice versa.’

Still, Leeha is having fun. Right, anyway, it’s still a gun.

Leeha lifted the musket. A target that appears in the air in an instant, with the distance about 40m.

When he lifted the bow, the target appeared in the distance of 50 meters, this means that the range of the musket is shorter than the bow even though it is a gun.

‘Good. Let’s shoot.’

Keudeuk, keudeuk.

When Leeha thought about shooting, he felt his heartbeat. With the help of the combat assistance system, Leeha lifted the musket.

No matter how much knowledge you have on rifles, what you know is still different from what you actually do. Since this is the first time he dealt with battlefield muskets, Leeha simply relied on the combat assistance system to let his body move automatically.

With the musket’s butt on his thigh, he moved the gun at an angle.

Then click, he opened the powder plate.

Took out the black powder wrapped in paper from the bag, poured a small amount into the gunpowder plate, and closed it.

‘It’s so slow.’

The musket was placed vertically on the floor and the remaining gunpowder was poured into the muzzle. Then he opened the bag again, took out the iron ball bullet and inserted it into the muzzle!

‘Are we shooting now?’

However, the Leeha’s hand only picked up another item.

Sticking the skewer longer than the barrel into the muzzle and pressing the skewer several times.

Only then did the Leeha’s body lift the musket.

It weighs 4.5kg, and it is not light.

It was held above his shoulder by the combat assistance system and aimed automatically.

Finally, his trigger finger moved.

Taaang—!

When gunpowder splattered, it had a nasty smell, and the name “black” gunpowder was overshadowed by a mass of “white” smoke that came out.

“Koheok, Koheook”

Leeha set up the musket and eagerly dispersed the smoke with his hands. However, target that was only 40m away was not hit.

“Huh?”

『It missed! In general, muskets have a 50% accuracy at 40m distance. Didn’t you look at the description of the weapon, mr. Model Student?』

(To be continued)
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‘Absurd. Did I miss it because I panicked? Of course it could miss, since it’s a ranged weapon… ’

“O-one more try!”

Leeha prepared for the next attack with a pounding heart. But it was slow, so slow. His body did not follow his mind no matter how much he told his mind to go faster! Even when he shouted he would still need time to shoot a musket.

He opened the gunpowder plate again, took out the black powder one more time from the regenerated paper packaging in the bag, and poured a small amount into the gunpowder plate -.

“Hey, did you make this to shoot?”

Leeha, who felt frustrated with his body moving around, stopped and shouted.

It’s really too much attack speed.

『Of course! Outlander who doesn’t know anything about muskets, it seems that you have seen a lot of inconvenience with just one shot.』

“Cra-……”

‘I barely swallowed the word “Crazy”. One shot per minute?? 50% accuracy at 40m??’

Leeha put the musket back in the air. The set items disappeared automatically from his bag.

“Let’s see, the bow.”

Leeha picked up the bow and opened the item window.

『Test Composite Bow』

Attack power: 15 〜 30 Range: 50m Attack speed: 15 shots per minute Requirements: Strength 10 or higher, agility 10 or higher, arrows

Description: Composite Bow. A bow made using animal tendons. It is convenient to carry, but it is quite difficult to pull.

『Test Long Bow』

Attack Power: 19 ~ 38 Range: 65m

Attack speed: 12 shots per minute Requirement: Strength 10 or higher, agility 10 or higher, arrows

Description: Longbow. Shoots farther with less power! Wearing green clothes may have additional effects.


『Test Crossbow』

Attack Power: 30 〜 60 Range: 30m Attack Speed: 7 rounds per minute Requirements: Strength 10 or higher, agility 10 or higher, bolts

Description: Easy-to-use improved furnace If you get used to how to it, you will not be beaten.

“It’s too much.”

‘It is an honest feeling felt by a gun enthusiast. Muskets had a 40m range and 1 shot per minute. How should we think about the generous evaluation for the bows? Since it’s for testing, it’s fixed to the level 1 basic stats.’

『Test Musket』

Attack Power: 233 Range: 40m Attack Speed: 1 shot per minute Requirements: Strength 10 or higher, agility 10 or higher, black powder, iron ball bullets, twisting belt

Description: One life per shot. Whether it’s an enemy or you.

‘Enemy or you? The accuracy rate is 50%, so if I don’t hit the enemy, I’ll die.’

Should I be grateful just for fixing the attack power without the minimum and maximum attack power? No, but the fixed attack power is not good either.

If you consider the rate of fire per minute, there is a way to make it considering the maximum damage of other ranged weapons and the number of fires per minute.

‘It’s almost fixed at the minimum attack power x attack speed standard. Still, compared to other weapons, it has a horrifying attack power…

The attack power enough to cover the huge handicap of 1 shot per minute is definitely attractive.

However, the one shot per minute I experienced in person was so frustrating that I really wanted to hit the game. What can I say about a short range and a low hit rate?

“Hey, isn’t this a very harsh condition?”

It wouldn’t change my conditions just because I was complaining, and I wouldn’t choose muskets myself.

『Because it is to balance the combat assistance system!』

“Combat assistance……? Ahh.”

A thought passed through Leeha’s mind for a moment.

‘Is it to balance the combat assistance system? Then the battle assistance system… … If you turn it off?’


“These specs you see now are when you attack with the combat assistance system turned on, right? So what if you turn it off? Will the range get higher or will the accuracy get higher? Do you mean that it can change as much as you like, depending on the person who is using it?”

‘They said it was a realistic game. Besides, I also heard from Kijung, and the unkindness of Middle Earth, which I experienced for a short time! This is also quite possible.’

『It must be balanced by the combat assistance system.』

“Hmm? No, that’s not the question?”

He heard laughter. 

‘What is it suddenly? Something is weird. Answers that seem to be different from the answer before. Doesn’t the Artificial Intelligence know what I’m asking?’

It is difficult for Leeha to see the space in the game. To be precise, it should be viewed as a space outside the game. Some kind of service place.

‘Moreover, once you choose a job, it’s over. It is irreversible. But the AI doesn’t answer?’

“I will ask you again. If you turn off the combat assistance system and use a ranged weapon, the accuracy and range can vary depending on the user’s ability, right?”

『It must be balanced by the combat assistance system.』

The words repeated once again. Leeha realized. That Middle Earth’s unique unkindness came out again! In other words, this means that the system cannot answer.

A world of adventure without information and strategy.

‘If you think in line with Goople’s intention of getting to know all the information and all the data on your own, that is similar to “reality ” there would be no doubt about it. Good.

If so? I need to find a way. There must be a number of practical strategies and methods on the Internet. What if there is a way to shoot a musket 10 times a minute or increase the accuracy rate to 80% or more? What if I could use that thug-like attack without a handicap?’

“Log out! Please end the game!”

『You cannot log out while changing jobs.』

“What?”

『You can log out only after you have selected a job.』

“W-What is it! Let me go!”

『You can log out only after you have selected a job.』


I learned one more thing about Goople’s intention.

‘I’m on my own. They even noticed that it’s not fair to go out in the middle to get information on the Internet, or to investigate ranged weapons that are easy to handle. The moment of choosing a job did not allow free time, neither in reality nor in game.’

“Shameless, so shameless.”

『Who is shameless? What is Mr. HaleeHalee thinking?』

Leeha did not have anything to say.

“Uhm，if so” Leeha looked at the weapon floating in the air again. Musket. Great attack power and beautiful appearance. It is so attractive that it is difficult to let go for gun lovers. However, it has too little value as a weapon.

‘Will you get an overbalanced item just because you love it? In the old movies, they were lined up in a row and shot upfront. If it’s only a person who is familiar in reality shoots that way. There is no advantage. Is there a way to make up for musket’s disadvantage?’

If he knew that, he will choose the musket without hesitation. But Middle Earth didn’t allow it. Leeha looked at the floating weapons and fell in thought. It’s definitely the musket that fascinates him more than magic.

However, if he approached it from a different perspective than his taste.

‘What am I doing now? I’m not playing this game to enjoy!’

It was so real that he forgot. He was at the point of feeling ashamed of himself, who got angry with Kijung.

‘I play games to make money. I can’t forget that.’

Leeha put an end to his worries.

『Are you giving up Musket? Wand? Staff?』

“Yes.”

In addition to what Kijung said that mages were fun and useful, Leeha also did some research.

Besides, in any game, mages belong to a job that makes a lot of money.

Leeha reached out for the wand floating in the air.

“I will————–Oh?”

As soon as Leeha reached out for the weapon, his arms disappeared followed by a numbing sensastion.

“Oh? Ohh? OOHHHH!!!!”

The body, which had floated in the air, suddenly fell down.

It felt like falling on a ground that doesn’t exist, falling backwards on stairs, sliding on an icy road, and falling without strength.

“That一一!”

“Leeha! Leeha, wake up! Leeha!”

“Keeeu……. Cough, cough, cough!” Leeha opened his eyes at the voice calling him. There is only a dark wall in front of him. What happened suddenly? The sensation of being dull appeared, but he cannot see anything.

“Wuoh, aahh.”

“Shall I open it?”

A human voice was heard by Leeha’s ears. Even in the midst of confusion, he clearly knew who it was.

“Mom?”

The touch that gently pressed the embarrassed Leeha and the gentle hand movements to remove items that were in front of him. Leeha felt like he fell from the void and his body shattered, but how did it happen?

Only then did he realize the forced termination of the virtual reality connector. As he made eye contact with his mother who took off the connector he was wearing on his head.

“Are you okay? Are you okay? Does it hurt anywhere?”

“What? What……. What happened?”

Leeha’s mother sighed in relief at the confused answer of Leeha.

“You didn’t know that I was already back, and you didn’t answer when I called you and you were groaning. I was wondering if it would be okay to unplug the cord. You’re really not hurt anywhere? Kijung said it was safe, but I guess it’s not.”

Leeha did not properly see his mother’s worried expression. He only heard one word.

“Did you unplug the cord?”

“Yes. I got worried..”

Only then did Leeha see the line in his mother’s hand. Unplugging the cord, what a primitive way to force log out.

It was the most unsafe way to turn off a safe machine, but he didn’t blame his mother for doing this. How can she know that, when all she did her entire life was to work hard.

“Mom, do you know what I just felt like?? Here-aack!!”

“Oh，Be careful. You’ll get hurt..”

His two legs were moving properly!

He couldn’t continue what he was saying as Leeha’s body fell when he tried to get up and tell his mother the good news. Contrary to his thoughts of getting out of the virtual reality connector, only his chest and arms were moving. His lower body below the belly button did not move.

“Ahh……. my legs…….”

“Why are you like this today? Be careful. You’re not in a good shape… …” His mother supported Leeha with a sad voice.

Even when he groaned, his legs did not move. Leeha suddenly burst into tears.

Is this really my body?

Until just now, it was moving properly while I was floating in the air.

Where’s the ankle that is used to step on Middle Earth? What about the knees that were shy when hearing the voice of an artificial intelligence woman? How about the thighs that stood firmly when shooting a musket?

Rather, didn’t I feel a more realistic sense in Middle Earth?

(To be continued…)
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Leeha’s smiling expression, like a child filled with joy and excitement, instantly disappeared. Of course, his mother didn’t miss that moment.

“What’s the matter?”

“Nothing. It’s nothing.”

“Is the machine okay? Should we just get a refund?”

“No! No! No!”

Leeha hurriedly reached out his hands. Without the virtual reality connector, no, Middle Earth, he may never feel the sensation of his legs again.

“Just leave it. It must have been expensive. Thank you for buying it for me, mom.”

“What, that’s refreshing. Because my son is good, mom is good too.”

‘Could it have been only two hours in reality?’

It only took two hours for Leeha to connect to Middle Earth, create his character, swing a sword, get achievements and go to Class Tower to change his job.

‘It was only that much, but did I get hooked into it?’

Originally, he didn’t like the game, but now he thought it was amazing. So he was able to convince himself again.

‘This level of realism and addiction. It is obviously the power of money. Now only job-‘

And Leeha’s expression began to harden.

“Leeha?”

“Hmm?”

“It’s nothing.”

“Oh, it has a user call function. I’ll show you, so don’t unplug next time. Okay?”

“Yes. Okay.”

“Phone, phone!”


Leeha hurriedly pushed his wheelchair and turned to the phone.

As I left my dumbfounded mother behind, I had only one thought in my head.

‘It said I can’t log out when you’re choosing a job? What will happen to my job when that happens?’ Leeha only had Kijung to talk to about Middle Earth so Leeha pressed his fingers to the predefined mobile phone number to call him, as his anxiousness grew steadily.

‘Fucked. I’m fucked!’

Leeha sighed while scrolling down the internet browser. As Kijung did not answer the phone, he eventually looked for information on his own, and after searching for a while he found out a sad reality.

『Title: I logged out after a power outage, but when I reconnected, why did I become a druid?』

Logged out in the middle of choosing a job and became a Druid. How do can I revert this? Should I report it to the headquarters? In order to become a tanker, I deliberately chose the giant race, but my first skill was Summon Crows… … ah it’s crazy.

How embarrassed the person was. However, the answer to the community’s question is 90% ridicule and 10% sadness. The misfortune of others is the world’s happiness.

Pity. You have to wait to create your character again. Three or six months.

-=I =I =I =q ^ Giant Druid, that’s a good idea. The crow’s the size of a giant’s finger.

-In Japan, they reported it because of an earthquake, but Goople didn’t accept it..

-=1 =1 =1 =1 =1 =1 =1 There’s already been a court ruling in the U. S. too.. Goople wins…

-Say “I’m tight” 10 times while running around the fountain.

-i_ I can’t do that. It’s going to kill me.

These scams are the worst. But there are people who get caught fishing like this.

– It takes three months to recreate after deleting a character.. … Just work hard with Druid… … Maybe later… … A nature-friendly job that uses animal power to strengthen one’s body or summon animals..

Until now, four months after opening, it was one of the professions that received vague evaluations, not as a tank, not a healer, nor a dealer.

When he saw the comments making fun of the original poster, Leeha got upset, but not as upset as the original poster was. He must have been in such a hurry that he followed the ridiculous comments.

‘Three months from character deletion to regeneration? It’s really too much.’

There is a certain degree on pursuit of reality.


However, in a virtual, but definitely “real”, world where you can enjoy adventures, users test a bunch of characters as test characters, and only select the best and delete the other characters after getting a lot of information. And it wasn’t what Goople wanted, they did not want to get users with strong characters after a cycle after creating and deleting characters.

‘Yes, that’s why there are many stable options.’

Leeha thought for a while, even though there are a lot of races, the majority of users are made up of the human race.

It takes 3 months to recreate after deletion, but who would want to be lizard like Lizardfolk, or a cat-like Catfolk? The same goes for jobs.

Everyone knows that in any game, races and jobs that are rated above average were preferred.

‘There must be people with special tastes somewhere, this is enough to say that it is fortunate that characters cannot be deleted due to death in the game.’

With such a high level of difficulty and low information, the game that paradoxically ignites the players even more was Middle Earth.

‘No, there’s still hope. Anyway, I’m not going to change my job to something like a druid.’

Looking at the unfortunate stories of many people, he found one thing in common. The job was not randomly assigned, but was forced to be confirmed as the job of the last weapon touched.

Anyway, one of the reasons that Goople received support is because the users were interested in the job and they touched the weapons.

‘Touched? Then it must be the last thing I held, right?’

Leeha traced his memories.

Obviously, he remembered his hand reaching for the wand. And?

‘Did I touch it? Ahh，musket!’

It seemed like he had his fingers closed before he got logged out.

If I connect to Middle Earth, I will know for sure, but I need to find courage before connecting.

Leeha searched for something else to gain courage.

Achievements. As for this, he had high expectations for himself that he might be ahead of other beginners like himself.

Even while searching, new articles were popping up in the community, and articles written this morning were pushed back by dozens of pages.

In this state, even if there is useful information, it will be difficult to find. He’d rather play the game instead of wasting time finding information that may or may not exist.


『Title: Let’s see who else is a model student at the training center.』

When I looked around, no one else could get it but me. Is this enough to be good at Middle Earth? No other person got it aside from me.

-Wow，What is that? Is it good?

-I also got it. The performance is pretty good at the beginning. Can you tell me?

-Please let me know.

-1_1_ How did you get it? What is the effect?

-■&I don’t wanna tell ya.. All of you are my competition, so I don’t want you to know

-i_ Beauty, watch out for the giant druid later.

‘There were a few, but I’m proud of myself. No one has revealed how to get it.’

Even the information that was found only briefly mentions its existence. Fewer even told how it worked.

After all, there’s a lot of competition in Korea.

The game also shows a lot of affection and greed.

It would be natural, though, since I didn’t feel the need to clarify how I got it and what the effect was.

In addition, most of the articles on achievements and titles were only boasting.

Even though the “model student at the novice training center” showed some boastful texts, the information was so small that those who knew the joy of running did not even mention it at all.

However, there were exceptions among them, and achievements such as “Sold all the rabbit meat” or titles such as “blinded” were more or less publicized and shared.

It’s easy to guess even if you just hear the name, but it’s not very effective because one can only get it when one is relatively a beginner…

‘In other words, they are only sharing things that are not very important.’

Even the title “blinded” is a title that can only be obtained by looking at the sun for at least 15 minutes in Middle Earth.

‘The same is true of the achievement of Sold all the rabbit meat’

Did the user get to level 9 by only catching rabbits from level 5? You need to hunt a total of a thousand rabbits?

Leeha shook his head without knowing. There are people who do this kind of hard work.

Should we be pleased that Koreans were the fastest in the world? In real time, there will not be many users that caught 1,000 rabbits after 4 days of starting the game.

‘Goople also posted a comment saying that it was surprising. Wow, really. Anyway, my achievements was not just good, it was very good.’

So Leeha gathered this and that information and made up his mind.

Anyway, this won’t change my job again and it won’t remain unselected.

Whether it is porridge or rice, you have to open the lid.

“Huu.”

Pushing the wheelchair in front of the virtual reality connector.

This time, he talked to his mother, so that the same thing as before will not happen again.

Finally he grabbed and wore all the things he needed in order to connect. Leeha got a tingling sensation in his temple.

It took only a few seconds for the real Ha Leeha to move back to the Ha Leeha of Middle Earth.

This time, he didn’t even feel the falling sensation.

There was also no voice of artificial intelligence. Only the body that suddenly rattled and stood and the scenery that appeared in front of his eyes as if drawn, telling him that he was connected to Middle Earth.

“Also… … The class tower… … ” His eyes closed and opened. Intuitively, he could feel that the job change was over.

However, in his current state, he did not know what he had changed into.

“Please, please, please!!”

As soon as Leeha opened the character window, he saw.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 1 (0%)

Title: None / Achievement: 2 HP: 160 / MP: 50 Stats: Strength 13(+3), agility 13(+3), intelligence 12(+2), constitution 13(+3), mind 10

“Ah… ”

His heart sank.

Leeha stared at the job on the floating character window.

“Musketeer?! Noooo!!!”

“Kkak! What is that person doing?”

Frustration, rage.

However, to some extent, isn’t this what he had anticipated? His desire to find a realistic course of action was greater than the frustration that Musketeer was chosen.

“What, anyway, where are the supplies for this job? Skill?”

Only then could Leeha feel the difference from his previous connection.

When Leeha turned his head in a certain direction, there was a flickering and irritating light in one corner, and he touched the light in front of him with a trembling mind.

『The job change is complete!』 『Class-specific items are provided.』

『You have acquired the lesser crude musket.』

『You have acquired 50 Black Powder.』

『You have acquired 50 Iron Ball Bullets.』

『Acquired a ramrod.』

“Ohh!”

Suddenly, a gun and a ramrod fell into the air. Leeha hurriedly reached out his hand and held it before the gun fell to the ground.

‘Gunpowder? Flint?’

When I opened the inventory window, I could see 50 folded paper bags and a ball of beads on one side.

The size of the musket and the stick is too big to fit in the bag.

‘Maybe the item’s attack is better.?’

But that couldn’t be the case with a name such as lesser crude musket.. It’s equal to a test musket.

Attack: 233, range: 40m

 This information made Leeha’s knees bend.

“Ugh…”

Then there is only one more light left.

Leeha, who had a rough sense of what it was, quickly touched it. Once the transfer is complete and the item was given, there was one left.

『You have learned the Skill Musket Mastery.』

『You have learned the Skill bayonet charge..』

“What’s this? Is that all?”

(To be continued…)
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The notification window, which only had a few sentences in it, disappeared by itself. Leeha opened his skill window while recalling the name of the skill that did not provide any information.

『Beginner’s Musket Mastery (Passive) (Lv.1)』

Description: You become more familiar with the musket the more you use it. Increases accuracy and reloading speed.

Effect: Additional increase in accuracy 0%, additional increase in loading speed 0%

『Beginner’s Bayonet Charge (Lv.1)』

Description: You can charge by attaching a mana bayonet to a musket. Use it only as a last resort.

Effect: Converts 30% of Musket’s attack power to melee attack for 15 seconds.

Mana Cost: 50

Cooldown: 5 minutes

‘The mastery passive is still in a state where it doesn’t help with anything, and the only active skill provided was bayonet charge?’

Leeha was in a more desperate situation than he initially thought.

He searched for related information on the internet and he found out that in Middle Earth, musketeer is one of the jobs with the smallest number of users.

As Leeha had already noticed, the abysmal accuracy and the snail-paced reload speed were enough to tire the users around the world. And among those with great virtues, most of them gave up.

Who wanted to live like that while playing such a realistic and stylish virtual reality game?

In addition, the difficulty of the game is too high to fight using the power of a single shot. It meant that your HP will eventually be similar to your opponent when you are getting hit while reloading.

‘But what kind of skill is bayonet charge? Suicide commando? Besides, my total mana right now is 50, and the skill consumption is 50, I can’t even use it more than once! By chance, while reading the posts of other musketeers crying on the internet, he also thought that they might have been whining too much. And it’s still a game. In fact, I anticipated that if I had a weak basic attack, I can still manage to adjust using skills. Of course, I did it on the assumption that the worst case scenario happened and I got the Musketeer as my job.

I expected that there would be a skill to increase accuracy to 100%, or to allow me to shoot a gun consecutively, even if the cooldown was a bit long. But this… … .’

“Ahhhhhhhhhhhh!!!!”

“Nani the fuck?!”

“What, that person?”


“Is that person crazy?”

“No!! This isn’t it!!!”

It’s different from the frustration he had earlier. Now there is really no hope or anything. Leeha could not do anything anymore. He thought that he finally found a new direction for his life after getting out of his miserable day to day life. After the accident, his bright personality that was thrown away finally brightened up again. To make a lot of money!

‘I, like other people, want to earn for my living expenses, and I thought that if I became a ranker, I could even earn money for the surgery! I thought I’d finally shine!’

It was an empty dream. In just a day, my dream to be successful in Middle Earth had been broken.

“It’s been a while since I saw a foreigner who changed into a Musketeer.”

As Leeha screamed and made the users around the class tower uncomfortable, he heard a new voice.

“Oh. Yes?”

“Did you like changing to Musketeer so much?”

The man was laughing so much at someone who was suffering, that it made his face red. However, Leeha did not get angry.

His tone and timing as well as not being able to grasp the atmosphere, the man is obviously not a user.

Above all, it is quite strange that a user can wear a luxurious chain mail made of thin chains in the beginner village.

“What’s going on?”

“He is someone who tests the potential of strangers that had recently changed to a new job.”

“Potential?”

The man who wore a chainmail and with a mustache smiled relaxedly while looking at Leeha who was groaning while breathing.

“Recently, there has been a complaint that the beasts outside the castle have become ferocious. It would be nice if we could come out in person, but the soldiers couldn’t go out of the village as we have not received a subjugation order? So, I am asking strangers who have gained new strength to exterminate them for us.”

“I see.”

“Please don’t refuse! It is also an opportunity to test your newly acquired strength. If you want a reward, I can give you some.”

A window opened in front of Leeha.


It wasn’t just a simple explanation, but it was the first quest he encountered after he entered Middle Earth.

『The ferocious rabbit hunting』

Description: It is said that a ferocious rabbit appeared outside the gateway to Candle Castle.. Try to get rid of grotesque beings that eat crops and animals.

Content: Rabbit leather (0 / 10)

Reward: 10% intimacy for all NPCs in Candle Castle, 15% for Candle Castle Guards, 50 copper

-Do you want to accept?

Leeha weakly pressed Yes. Most of the guards were still standing near the class tower. In fact, it can be seen that it was in order to give the quest the second that users changed into a new job, like Leeha.

‘Ha, failure is failure, there is no reason to reject the quest.’

“Where should I go?”

“You’ll see a gateway outside when you walk a little over there. And like a regular rabbit, the numbers of ferocious rabbits increase rapidly.”

“Okay.. I’ll go and handle it”

“Thank you very much.”

The man in the chain mail nodded and asked Leeha to shake hands. He hugged the musket and ramrod, and held his hand in an awkward posture.

‘Let’s do it. I have no choice but to do it.’

It took 3 months to create another character after deletion.

It’s like saying to quit the game. In fact, Leeha would not hesitate to delete his character if he did not start late, but it is different now.

How could he do that?

‘It’s a gun, and it was my specialty anyway. If I get used to it, it will definitely be worth using.’

Leeha put the musket on his shoulder and stepped forward.

‘Wouldn’t it have been fortunate if I had at least a shoulder strap?’


This also attracted the attention of users moving toward the south gate closest to where the class tower was.

“Wow, what is that? It’s a gun?”

“Ohhh! There is a man who has changed his job to Musketeer.”

“Amazing. Has anyone else done that?”

“I didn’t even know there was a gun. Were you able to try it?”

“No. I threw it while reloading. The crossbow had an accuracy of 85%. Why would I choose a musket?”

Two friends in a party. The voice of the users stabbed like daggers into Leeha’s heart.

‘Who doesn’t know that. I know it too! Crossbow’s range is 30m! They have a 10m difference but the accuracy is the deciding factor!’

50% accuracy at 40m distance and 85% accuracy at 30m distance. The difference in item description between Musket and Crossbow was enough to make users ignore the musket.

The loading speed is also 7 times faster than that of a musket. The difference between 1 shot per minute and 7 shots per minute is huge.

A musket has 1 shot per minute with 233 attack power and a crossbow has 7 shots per minute with 30-60 attack power. Even if a user using the crossbow is really unlucky and misses a single shot, and the rest of the shots all deal the lowest damage, it will still deal 180 damage in total. And if a user using a crossbow with medium luck, can deal 270 damage even when they only deal average damage, they can even deal 300 or more when the maximum damage is reached.

On the contrary, when a musketeer is extremely lucky, he gets a constant attack of 233, but what if the Musketeer is unlucky? 0.

A crossbow that deals 180 to 300 damage per minute and a musket that deals 0 to 233 damage per minute, isn’t the difference between night and day?

In other words, it means to give away the difference in attack power to get an additional range of l0m.

Leeha went to the south gate in a gloomy mood. As he walked a little further along the road past the guards guarding the gate, a green meadow emerged with the hills already filled with people.

“Heavy Strike”

Chwiik-!

Leeha was familiar with the skill that was used as it was taught at the training center, a red afterimage appeared on the tip of the sword and cut the rabbit.

The realism, which is not like a game, is the same in battle.

‘Whether it’s cool or terrible to implement the internal organs. It looks great.’

Cut, stab, kick.

The field is crowded with the spirit of the people and the cry of the rabbit.

It’s been 4 months since Middle Earth opened, but there are still many people in the beginner hunting ground.

‘It’s a problem to pick a job that’s ruined in a game that’s so crowded and worthwhile. I can’t help it though. Complaining now will not improve anything. The only thing left now is to go forward!’

Chwiik, chwiik.

Leeha found his first target, a rabbit eating something on a sloping ground, about 35m away.

‘If I consider the rabbit moving, I should shoot from this distance.’

His hands moved slowly, his heart started to beat instantly as the combat assistance system worked and guided Leeha’s body.

He supported the musket’s butt with his thigh, opened the gunpowder plate and put in a small amount of the packaged black powder from the bag!

‘Uhh, chum!’

He put up a musket, poured the remaining amount of black powder into the muzzle, and picked up a bullet of iron beads and inserted it in the muzzle.

He put his mouth on the muzzle and blew in the wind once, and then he took the ramrod attached to the musket and put it in the muzzle. Kkuuk，Kkuuk.

‘Faster!’

Of course, it didn’t make it faster. After a minute, he finally lifted the musket.

It is said that the shooting itself is based on the combat assistance system, but the stable posture is made by the user. Before shooting, Leeha knelt on one knee and sat down.

With the expectation that the accuracy rate will increase even a little.

‘Shooting a living thing- no, this is not reality.’

The rabbit’s ears were so realistic that it was pricking, and Leeha’s movements changed, but he made up his mind again. 

‘This is a game and why do I play this game? Don’t hesitate to shoot an animal.’

Taaang—!

The sound of an artificial explosion rang out loud in the field where only the sound of people’s cheers were heard.

A stimulating and amazing sound, that the users in the vicinity searched for the source of the sound.

Leeha, who put down the musket that released white smoke, looked at the rabbit.

‘Did it hit? Looks like a blood spot… … uh?’

There were bloodstains, but it was not the result of Leeha’s gunshot. Then?

‘Hmm? What? Is it the rabbit’s bloodstain? W-what was it eating just now? Does this make sense?’

Leeha raised his body and opened his eyes, confused.

Only then did he realize the situation. The rabbit was biting a struggling prey. Was it a mole or a rat? And Leeha saw it.

That the carnivorous rabbit is staring at him with red eyes.

“Oh? Ohhhhh!”

The rabbit 35m away. What was the reason the target looked so clear and large in Leeha’s eyes? The answer is simple. Because the target was big.

The rabbit, who was probably bigger than a cat, started running with red eyes.

“Uwaah.”

Reload, reload!

He was fortunate to rely on the combat assistance system, but if it by himself, he would not have been able to pick up gunpowder or paper bags.

Contrary to the panicking Leeha, his body slowly and leisurely took out the black powder and put it in a plate-and the long movements were resumed.

1 minute reload time. The distance is only 35m.

You can walk 35m even if you walk in a handstand for 1 minute. How long would the rabbit take? The monster rabbit whose eyes were red and was eating a mouse?

Kkuiik-!

“Kyak!”

A cat-sized rabbit leaped forward and smashed its hind paws.

The big feet that accurately hit Leeha’s chest that was just closing the gunpowder plate!

Ttok-! The moment his foot touched with the sound, he felt it.

‘D,dad?’

(To be continued…)
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Leeha felt pain for a while, however as soon as he was able to control his thrown body, the rabbit rushed again. It’s a game, and it was not the time to be whining about why it hurt. Leeha’s attack failed, and if he reloaded, he would be beaten to death. What should a Musketeer do?

Leeha picked up his musket and ramrod and started running away. He turned back and went to the hill with many users.

“Help! Save me!”

“Kikkik，What is that guy doing?”

“Can’t he catch the rabbit and he has to run away? You can even hunt it by using a knife.”

“Is he not a mage? Why is he running with a staff? With just one beginner’s magic, the rabbit would die.”

“He must have used up his mana. Hopefully, we can see a person getting killed by a rabbit.”

There were many other users around, but there was no user who wanted to run and help. Rather, they only laughed with interested eyes.

Besides, the 1.5m long old-fashioned gun was mistaken for a staff. How unpopular was a musketeer?

“If you get killed by a rabbit, the penalty would be the same, right?”

“Yes. It’s the same. If it’s before level 5, you won’t be able to connect for 48 hours when you die.”

“Waaaahh!!!”

Leeha ran and ran again. He was about to forget that his lower body is disabled in real life.

He was out of breath, but he couldn’t stop.

‘If I keep running, I can live. Even if we have similar stamina, it doesn’t have something like the Runner’s High skill, right?’

According to Leeha’s calculation, he would have no problem running.

However, Leeha heard something.

Papat Papat.

 The rabbit’s footsteps were getting louder and louder from behind and he is having a hard time breathing.

Humans cannot run faster than rabbits.


“S-Save me! Save-.”

As soon as the rabbit, who had been running, struck him on his back, his body, which had been running, was thrown and he rolled on the ground.

“Keheok. Kkeuk.”

Two and a half turns with acceleration added.

Kkuik-! Kkui!

“Its cry is that of a cute rabbit’s, but why is it so violent?”

“Hahaha, he rolled! Wow. If you run away from a rabbit, the result will be like that.”

“Where do people who can’t catch rabbits go level up?”

“They have to quit the game. Why did he choose a mage when he couldn’t cast properly?”

Users laughed loudly once more.

“Cough…”

Leeha, who was lying on the floor, stood up and raised his head.

“I… … I couldn’t even catch a rabbit.”

He couldn’t aim properly, and missed, and got hit by a rabbit and rolled on the ground.

“Does this make sense?”

The fear that he felt from the rabbit in an instant turned into anger and embarrassment.

The vision turned red. That was a sign that his HP had already decreased to 50%. Did I get hit twice?

Since Leeha did not know the rabbit’s normal attack power, he didn’t know how to calculate the damage accurately.

The first hit in his chest was a critical hit. Critical hit.

Additionally, he had just been hit on his back and rolled on the ground, causing more damage.


Kkui! Kkui!

The ferocious rabbit slammed its big feet on the ground and stared at the Leeha. A predator’s attitude to kill Leeha with one final blow.

Leeha got up from his seat while dusting off his body. Weirdly, the musket was held upside down.

“Hmm, yeah, there’s no law that tells you to just shoot.”

Kkui! Kkyu! Kkyu?

The rabbit ran toward Leeha.

Leeha faced the rabbit like a baseball player looking for a homerun.

Holding its barrel, Leeha swung the musket.

“Come on!”

“Kkuiii!!” The rabbit screamed followed by a heavy thud. The rabbit landed on the ground, and stood up again.

“Come on, I struck it well. This guy. Let’s see who wins!”

Fighting against the rabbit. Leeha held his musket like a mace and the rabbit kicked while avoiding his attacks.

A desperate do or die struggle. The sound of Leeha’s violent way of hunting was heard and drew the attention of the surrounding users.

“Oh, that’s too savage.”

“Would you like to do that?”

It was fine to cut a rabbit with a sword, but the image of Leeha swinging his musket on the rabbit like a club was brutal.

“Kuat! Got it! Got it! Haha, you damn rabbit!”

When the rabbit’s body finally turned gray, Leeha shouted, raising the musket into the sky.

Leeha smiled, joyful for the success of his first hunt.

“What is that guy? If you’re like that while catching a rabbit, you’ll likely dance when you catch a fox.”


“Don’t make eye contact. We will be harmed for no reason.”

“But if you were going to hunt like that, wouldn’t it be better to just use a mace? Why did you pick that if you were going to beat it to death anyway? I feel sorry for the rabbit.”

“Leave it alone. Nasty pussy.”

People felt embarrassed for Leeha.

Heavy Strike! Ha!

Kkyui-kkyuit!

Hearing the cries of rabbits as big as a cat, Leeha turned his back to the hill and sat down.

To recover HP, he had to take a break.

The joy of success in hunting quickly turned into embarrassment seeing a female user hunt the rabbit successfully using three attacks without getting hurt.

‘All I had to do was dodge, and I couldn’t even do that. Was I supposed to get hit?’

The musket is a weapon where you are not able to move while loading and firing, and it is natural that the body guided by the combat assistance system will not move unless the user is willing to give up the attack.

You can’t move when you load it, and you can’t use a musket when you move.

‘Does this mean that I need to risk my life for one shot? If I can’t hit, I’m going to be knocked out and use a bayonet charge? Does this make sense? No, the mobs with high health won’t die in one shot even if you hit them with the musket! Or is the main skill of the Musketeer job the bayonet charge?’

Compared to the rabbit’s attack power-it’s embarrassing to say this-it’s very low, so it’s a shame. If it’s another beast or humanoid monster, it won’t die in a single bayonet charge.

Not a single gun skill, only bayonet charge… … then?

Leeha suddenly imagined holding a musket and hitting a dragon.

Musketeer who crushes dragon scales with a butt!

‘No. Think positively. Positively. You just ran well! I could do this much thanks to my running achievement.’

And first of all, didn’t the hunt succeed? Even though he showed something shameful.

Leeha’s personality which disappeared after the accident is gradually returning as he played middle earth.

As it was positive and cheerful

Leeha opened his bag and checked his ‘accomplishment’.

The rabbit’s skin, which was so realistically embodied, protruded from the bag.

It had soft rabbit fur, but the skin was damp and moist.

‘How fortunate that I do not have to pick up the loot individually. Good, good. Positive, positive! I was told to get the rabbit skin, so I thought I had to peel the skin from the dead rabbit myself. I don’t have to. The corpse of the rabbit became gray and disappeared, and the skin fell on the floor. If I had to cut it yourself, how long would it take to complete the quest by shaving the claws of unknown monsters and removing the teeth?’

At that time, a whisper came from his cousin Kijung.

 – Hyung! Did you log back in?

– Kijung! I got logged out for a while.

For Leeha, his voice was the same as a beacon of light.

 – Does Middle Earth force log out? Hmm, what did you get with your job change anyway? Elementalist? Sorcerer? Warlock is good these days.

 – ……Musketeer.

 – Musketeer? What is that?

‘How should I answer Kijung’s question?’

It seemed that he did not understand Leeha’s words. Was it because he hadn’t heard it for too long. Or maybe it’s something he’s never heard of…

– That……You know, the one that shoots a gun.

– Gun? What? A gun? Ah! Oh!

The surprised expression Kijung unwittingly spit out was telling everything. And the conversation was cut off for a while because both of them knew well that users couldn’t change the job they had already chosen.

 – O-okay. I hope that job will improve later.

 – What are you talking about? You’re hoping it gets better? Does it mean that it can get better?

 – I-I-It’s good because it’s a gun.. Wouldn’t it be nice?

Kijung’s voice began to fluctuate up and down. As if someone was trying to comfort Leeha, but couldn’t lie.

 – Kijung, what should I do?

 – Haa. It can’t be helped because it has already been chosen. Still, saying it’s a gun? Wasn’t hyung a sharpshooter or a sniper or something like that? Try turning off the auto combat system once. In our guild, there’s a person who was a 5th dan Kumdo practitioner who became a highlander, and he’s really strong.

 – What is a Highlander?

 – It’s a two-handed sword user. Even when he does not have any special skills, he can attack like he is using one.

 – Really?

 – Yes. I also wrote that in the strategy book. It is better to choose a job that can make use of your specialty in the real world. So, hyung, even though you did not become a mage … Ha- I think you can still do well in Middle Earth.

‘That Highlander can win against anyone without using the combat assistance system? Did Kijung sigh while he was talking?’

At Kijung’s words, Leeha noticed some facts. He asked the Artificial Intelligence helper, but it repeated the same answer and didn’t give any more hints, he got a rough feeling.

‘And his strategy book. I didn’t look at it properly because it couldn’t be called a strategy book anyway.’

He couldn’t even tell him that. No, even if he read it, he probably won’t understand it properly. There’s a difference between listening to an explanation and experiencing it firsthand.

 – First, you need to practice. Show the sniper power!

 – Right，Ah! One more thing.

 – What? Do you have any other questions?

 – If you turn off the combat assistance system, will the preparation motion and the progression time of these things decrease?

 – Yes. Of course. So, there is an advantage for those who have learned martial arts. Did you see that the incumbent mixed martial arts player has a fighter class and uses grappling skills on trolls! The user was using grappling skills continuously without any cooldown, and broke the troll’s neck. It must have been an awesome scene to see.

 – That’s right. Thank God. All right, Kijung. But when will you show your strength?

 – Hmm?

 – You said you would help me if I changed my job?

Suddenly, the sound on his head stopped. He shouted loudly for help me.

 – Oh, hyung should get to level 10 first. I won’t be able to help you anyway. You can do it step by step from the quest to catch the rabbit.

 – Right.

Leeha risked his life while catching the rabbit, but he didn’t want to ask for help.

 – I can’t do it right now because I have to meet my friends. Get to level 10 first hyung!

 – Okay, I’ll level up quickly and follow you. Wait.

Leeha stopped whispering with Kijung. The moment he said a few words, his energy didn’t come back and instead felt a little depressed.

Fighting with the rabbit will be difficult in the future, but that is the story with the battle assistance system.

‘Yes, let’s try it my way. I need to learn it with my body.’

Injury does not mean that knowledge is lost.

‘Let’s study one by one from the start.’

Leeha, who was sitting, jumped up.

He felt his HP and Stamina getting full.

(To be continued…)
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‘Is it realistic? Yes, it’s good. It is very realistic. I need to study. Which posture is the most stable? What is the speed of the bullet? What are the variables that could affect its trajectory? What about the wind? The distance? What is Musket’s zero point configuration? Is it high or low? How far does it travel before that trajectory bends? In retrospect, I didn’t know anything about the musket. I was just moaning and complaining while using the Combat Assistance System. Of course, how many people were willing to learn even after knowing this information.’

Leeha drank his remaining coffee. After hearing Kijung’s advice, Leeha felt that it’s not hard to notice that the Combat Assistance System can be turned off and create a more favorable environment.

Many people probably knew, and many have probably tried it with a sword, facing and cutting the enemy.

Riding on a running horse, and shooting a bow while avoiding the enemy.

Practicing how to move while casting magic, as well as moving and releasing mana accordingly.

That’s not something you can do with only just knowing.

People knew how to study well, how to make money, how to expand their network, and how to live the world right, but he couldn’t.

‘I am different. This is my last chance.’

Leeha was desperate. The feelings he had were different from others. If he were a mage, he might have been playing hard and leveling up in the game right now.

Unfortunately, he was a musketeer.

It was a job that most Middle Earth users avoided, there was no method. He couldn’t turn the time back.

Leeha searched the available data on the Musket and recorded it into a spreadsheet.

The velocity of actual muskets is around 700s, the approximate measurement and mass of the bullets are similar in game.

The approximate ballistic coefficient and kinetic energy by distance according to the velocity were summarized into several values and put into one table.

‘The musket’s bullet has a parabolic trajectory, it’s longest range is greater than a bow. If I could turn off the combat assistance system, I could get more distance. In the end, accuracy is the problem.’

The ferocious rabbit ran 35m in no time, but if it was 350m, the story would be different.

Of course, it was a different problem altogether, stretching 35m to 350m, and it was also a problem if the ferocious rabbit could run 350m in one minute.

In the end, it’s the difference between taking another shot or not.

‘Because of that, that one shot is important to a Musketeer. If I can figure out what range I can maintain the attack power in the game, it will certainly be possible to have a longer range than the 40m specification.

“Hmm…”


Leeha looked at the old-fashioned monitor. In his military days, he had mastered writing and arranging reports, and the tables in the monitor were arranged nicely, but the numbers displayed representing various values was enough to make people dizzy.

‘Well I roughly know the values, but I shouldn’t rely on the computer’s calculation to produce the perfect results. I have to replicate the expected results, experiment in the game, correct the errors and recalculate, and experiment again in the game. If you think that’s the end, it’s not. There’s also picking up the most effective range and hitting targets at that effective range. This is a different problem than simply analyzing the Musket.’

‘Should I sell steel wire? No, can I sell it? Even if I sell it, I have to get a new bullet. Because I can’t use the steel wires with the current bead-like bullets. I wouldn’t be able to use it right away.’

The musket used by Leeha in Middle Earth does not have steel wire. The accuracy of a gun with a steel wire and a gun without a steel wire was difficult to say in terms of numbers.

Maybe ten times? No, a hundred times?

However, rather than modifying a rifle, it was more important to adapt to the existing gun.

‘I thought it was awful back then, but as I read, the 50% hit rate and 1 minute reload time appears to be a huge help to users. Can ordinary people accurately shoot at 20m?’

The bullets are not pointed, but round iron beads.

Therefore, even if the correct value is calculated and aimed properly, there are many possibilities of it turning in an unexpected direction.

Compared to modern rifles, muskets were firearms with many points that has to be supplemented.

‘Phew, isn’t this really the best configuration?’

He heard the crying of the door hinge and my mother’s cautious voice.

“Son, are you studying? Why are you so zealous all of a sudden?”

“Yes? Ah, no. That…”

“Do it while eating fruit. I should have bought it earlier if I knew you would get better like this as soon as the machine came. Right?”

“Haha. Right.”

“Next time, tell Kijung to come when I get home from work. We should thank him by cooking meat.”

Leeha’s mother smiled warmly.

After the accident, he did not get out of the house and only laid in bed all the time.

But now, he is studying and looking forward to something with a bright expression.


Just one day, no, half a day. The change happened in just a few hours, and the difference is like comparing night and day.

“Sleep early. Drinking coffee and studying until late at night is not good for your body.”

“Yes, you can sleep first mom.”

“Yes, I have to sleep to go to work in the morning. Wake me up when you want to lie down. I’ll lay you down.”

“I’ll do it myself. Please have a good rest.”

Leeha clenched his teeth at his mother’s words.

Defeating monsters by bludgeoning? Such thoughts should be removed right away. I need to quickly identify the characteristics of a musket in order to help in the house using Middle Earth as a source of income.

I can’t be my mother’s burden forever.

‘Besides, I need to make sure that my income is guaranteed.’

Leeha opened a new Internet window.

『Buy』 Buy 3 gold for W300,000

『Sell』 50 Gold Farm / Can be be split to 10 gold per transaction for W 1,200,000』

『Purchase』 Buying 80 silver for W85,000.

『Sell – Transaction Completed』 Sold : Ring of Health + 7 / W5,500,000』

Each time the refresh button is hit, new transactions are being updated.

The trading in Middle Earth is similar to trading in reality.

‘The Korean site alone receives 30,000 items a day, along with countless currency trades.’

The cost of gold is 100 US Dollar per gold, and between 100,000 to 120,000 Korean Won per gold.

‘In other words, if I can earn 20,000 gold, I will be able to operate consistently.’

Of course, the price of gold in Middle Earth is twice the price of real gold, meaning, 20,000 Middle Earth gold is a whopping 3,750grams of real gold. It’s a ridiculous amount of money.


“I have enough data, and now the only thing I need to do is practice.”

After that, Leeha continued to study for a long time. He ate the apple that his mom gave him and only stopped until rubbing his eyes cannot remove his fatigue.

And when the sun rose.

Taaang—-!

Gunpowder smoke spread along with gunfire.

“Oh，what a surprise. Isn’t that a gunshot?”

“Was there a gun in Middle Earth?”

A man with a sword and a man with a bow stopped hunting rabbits and looked at one user. The man was shooting into the air.

“What is he doing?”

“Well.”

The user, who was muttering alone, rummed through his bag and then fiddled with his gun again.

“Is he using magic on the gun?”

“It looks like he’s reloading.”

“So long?”

While they spoke, an arrow shot by the man with a bow had accurately hit a rabbit. Kkuik-! The rabbit’s body turned over with a sound and gradually turned gray.

He put the rabbit skin and meat into his bag, and by the time he finished, another gunshot rang again. Taaang!

They heard a loud gunshot once again.

“I guess he needs to reload. Crazy. I can never use such a weapon.”

“He has amazing patience. Haha. Let’s go.”

Despite such ridicule, the man with the gun, Ha Leeha, was looking at the bullets without worrying about it.

Based on the results calculated last night, it would have been difficult for others to understand how he was directly experimenting in Middle Earth.

He wasn’t even shooting a rabbit, he was just pointing the muzzle up slightly.

In other words, they didn’t know that the muzzle pointed in the air was aimed at a tree in the distance.

Leeha went through his bag and touched the gunpowder wrapped in paper. I have already used 27 of the 50 I received while changing my job.

“There are twenty-three left. I missed once and cancelled while reloading once yesterday, so the number is correct…”

Leeha scratched his head

He counted and shot a lot, but what’s the outcome?

“Character window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 1 (10%)

Title: None / Achievement: 2 HP: 160 / MP: 50 Stats: Strength 13(+3), agility 13(+3), intelligence 12(+2), constitution 13(+3), mind 10

‘The highest level is 200, three months after the game opened. I’ll be chasing that in a month and a half..’

Leeha looked around as he cleared his breath.

The people who hunted here yesterday were now out of sight, and although it was uncommon, other people were hunting in the same place.

And, in the middle, a rabbit appeared in his eyes.

‘It’s not perfect yet, but I can’t waste any more gunpowder.’

The first is distance calculation.

It is a little closer than the distance to the trees shot so far.

“Huuu…”

Leeha’s hand moved quickly after inhaling. After the distance calculation is complete, is the bullet trajectory calculation. Took out the black powder wrapped in paper and opened the powder plate.

The half of the gunpowder Leeha had taken in the bag was poured into the powder plate.

And with practiced movements, Leeha’s hands carefully poured the remaining gunpowder through the muzzle.

After completing the preparation, he inserted the bullet into the muzzle and pushed it with the ramrod.

‘Good.’

Leeha raised the musket and pulled up some grass.

He lightly scattered it into the air to check the movement of the wind. The scattered grass did not move too much while falling.

‘There’s little wind movement.’

Leeha naturally laid on the ground.

In order to secure the stability of the musket. Leeha had already done this pose a hundred times, or maybe a thousand times before.

Leeha maintained an unshakable shoulder while in shooting and looked at the Under the prone shooting posture, the concrete itself, while maintaining an unshakable shoulder, looked at the scope.

The scope and sight match, but the line of sight is not in contact with the target.

‘Taking into account gravity and wind…

Finally，calculating the effect of external variables on the trajectory.

What effect can the variables have when the bullet flies the distance from the shooter to the target?

Leeha’s muzzle is pointed upwards, slightly off target. The difference between rifles and muskets must also be considered.

Kkui-?

The presence of hostility.

‘The moment the rabbit noticed that something was wrong and someone was aiming at it.’ It looked at Leeha!

—!

The time it took the bullet to reach the rabbit that is 130m away from Leeha is 0.4s.

‘Did it hit?’

The rabbit’s eyes were on Leeha. But that’s all.

Red eyes, swollen thighs.

The rabbit began to look at Leeha, who threatened it.

“Damn it… … Again.”

Leeha was prepared to lift his musket upside down when the shot missed. He was prepared to add another blood spot on the musket’s butt.

The musket’s butt still had the blood of the rabbit that Leeha had previously killed through bludgeoning.

‘Please，Please, this time!’

His index finger moved.

Taaang—!

By the time the gunshots ended, he got up. With a joyful expression.

‘Yes，finally! Yes!’

He was 110m away, but Leeha could see. No, he could feel it the moment he shot. There was no help from the combat assistance system, but the sensation of pulling the trigger countless times since childhood made him predict the outcome.

(To be continued…)
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Chapter 12

‘Shit，I got lucky this time. I thought I was going to fight with the butt again.’

It’s good enough to have a 50% chance to hit at 110m distance.

My career as a sniper in the army has finally come to light. Like shooting a congratulatory gun for the first hunt with a musket, babam!! Even sound effects rang.

‘This sound……? surely?’

Leeha heard a familiar sound. In an instant, a window popped up, making Leeha’s vision dizzy.

『Achievement: I was blown away to the past (F-)』

Congratulations! You succeeded in a long ranged attack without using the Combat Assistance System! Did you shoot some outside?

Effect: Agility +1

『Achievement: Omae wa Mou Shindeiru (C-)』

Congratulations! There are no weapons that can counterattack outside 100m. Don’t blindly shoot, because the enemy is already dead.

Effect: Strength +3, agility +7

You are the third to achieve 『Omae wa Mou Shindeiru』

The first three users to get this achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame. The effect will be increased to 200%. Effect: Strength +6, agility +14

“Wow! What is this? Character window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 1 (30%)

Title: None / Achievement: 4 HP: 160 / MP: 50 Stat: Strength 22(+12), agility 35(+25),

Intelligence 12(+2), constitution 13(+3), mind 10

Two achievements added at once.

Additionally, the words that made Leeha’s eyes wide open, hall of Fame?


“200% increase in effect.”

The importance of additional stats has already been confirmed through the trading site. One ring that raised the stamina by 7 points is sold for about 5.5 million won.

Above all, users only get 5 points per level up.

In addition, there are bonus points on certain level thresholds in addition to the original 5 points per level.

For example, every 10 levels, the additional stat given is 5 points, and when reaching level 100, 20 bonus points are given.

In other words, if a level 1 user achieves level 100, the total number of stat points according to level up is 570.

Of course, there are additional ways to get stats, but at least that is the standard overall stats.

But what about Leeha’s stats now? The calculation can be done in an instant.

’42 points earned only from achievements? This isn’t just a simple help anymore! It’s just like I leveled up eight times, right?’

Leeha’s mouth widened from side to side. No matter how much he controlled it, he couldn’t prevent himself from laughing.

‘In other words, awesome, amazing. It’s extremely difficult to gain 10 stats from a single achievement! But I think I deserve it.’ As stated in the description, and according to the item specifications currently revealed in Middle Earth, there is no weapon that can attack from outside 100m.

To make it successful, you have to turn off the combat assistance system and use a ranged weapon with a fairly long range.

Naturally, the difficulty level is not normal. He is the third person to achieve it.

‘No. It’s okay though. It’s good enough.’

100 million cumulative subscribers after 4 months of opening. It would be impossible to get into the top three in any achievement of such a game unless it was someone who played the game as soon as it started.

In other words, it can be assumed that no one has ever succeeded in such an attack from a distance.

“By the way……. thinking about it……

Wouldn’t those who started early in the game get this enormous benefit? It is a little regrettable. Nevertheless, I couldn’t stop the laughter coming out.

“Huhu, heuheuheu.”

Leeha stepped forward to get the rabbit skin.


After a step, he had the urge to respond to the ridicule he got before.

“You can catch a rabbit just by cutting it? Yes, cut away. I will go my way..”

After taking the rabbit’s skin, he looked around immediately.

The rabbits are spread out. Leeha looked at the corner where the players who ran, knives, avoided kicking, and shouted magic spells.

Now that he experienced the feeling of shooting at 110m distance, the next step is easy.

Anyway, now that he had the feel for it, he was confident at hitting targets within 40m without the help of the Combat Assistance System, as well as targets between about 90m and 120m, he is able to manage as long as he gets the same feeling as before.

Leeha took out the black powder wrapped in paper and opened the powder plate. He calmed his mind and, after completing a series of actions necessary for loading, he blew the gunpowder into the muzzle.

“7 in front. I lay down to eat rice cakes, no, I lay down and shoot.”

This guy is only 90m away. He searched for the feeling he got earlier.

Taaang—-!

It takes 0.3 seconds for the bullet to reach the rabbit that is 90m away from Leeha.

Leeha knew that it would hit as he felt the similar sensation earlier.

“Haa. I need to practice increasing the accuracy rate for a while.”

The sigh he did now was different from the sigh he did earlier.

Leeha got up and held the musket upside down. Will the butt break?

‘The last one.’

Leeha’s fingertip pulled the trigger.

The users around are now so familiar with gunshots that they were no longer surprised by the sound. A rabbit 60m away flipped over with one of its feet twitching.

“Good!”

This resulted in three successive shots at the edge of 60m.


‘I can now hit all targets within 50m, miss one out of five beyond that and I have 50% accuracy at 100m. It’s good enough just to get the 40m limit of the item.’

A white light surrounded Leeha. It is as if a white curtain was covered around him.

“Oh? Oh?”

Unlike Leeha, who was surprised, people around him laughed.

『You leveled up.』

“Congratulations. You leveled up.”

“You used to bludgeon the rabbits to death, right? Kek, your gun skills have improved a lot. You should have used it earlier.”

“Whoa is that a level up? I still have to catch three more.”

As it is difficult to level up, did the add a visual effect to it?

The white light surrounding Leeha like a living film, became more and more intense, and then paat-! The light scattered.

“This……”

There aren’t many people who laugh at themselves when they receive the evaluation for not being able to hit accurately using a gun.

Congratulating his levelup with curious eyes and clapping hands, Leeha cried without even noticing. There seemed to be something like a teasing in the middle, but compared to being looked down, it felt more like being teased.

“Thank you，Thank you.”

The congratulating people also wanted to level up and after congratulating for a while focused on leveling again. Leeha quietly opened the character window.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 2 (0%)

Title: None / Achievement: 4 HP: 170 / MP: 55 Stat: Strength 22(+12), agility 35(+25), intelligence 12(+2), constitution 13(+3),

Mind 10

Points Remaining: 5

‘Um, where do I put my points?’

It is not possible to know which stats have exactly what effect. What if investing in agility only works for attacks using combat assistance systems?

It would have no effect on Leeha who had no choice but to fight with the combat assistance system turned off.

‘Of course not. Let’s save it first. I can ask Kijung more of this and post it after doing more research. There’s no need to rush.’

It is also true that the stats are not low thanks to the tremendous bonus of achievements. Leeha looked at the number 2 next to the level, smiled once, and closed the character window.

“Oops, leather!”

It is still too early to be impressed. Leeha ran towards the far away rabbit’s corpse.

“Good，Let’s go back.”

Hunting for the tenth rabbit is over, and the tenth leather is obtained. Afterwards, he put leather in his bag and headed for the village.

After he stepped towards the village, a light suddenly appeared and something came out.

“Wha!”

It’s a rabbit.

‘So they appear like this. It’s the first time I’ve seen them respawn.’

It was his first time seeing how mobs appear out of thin air, but he felt sadder than surprised upon seeing the rabbit.

Wouldn’t it have been so violent if I had suffered so hard while catching a rabbit?

“Right. This guy. Thank you for the experience.”

Kkui?

Leeha held his musket upside down. Anyway, it’s better to raise one’s experience whenever one can.

“Kriyaaah”

KKyu! Kkui!

The rabbit’s eyes turn red as soon as it got attacked. However, it couldn’t resist the attack power of the musket being wielded by Leeha or, precisely, the musket’s butt.

It only took 3 attacks to kill the rabbit. The level 2 Leeha needed only 3 attacks in order to kill the rabbit the the musket’s butt.

“Heuheu，I needed to run before, when I saw a rabbit. Thanks for the experience.

– No, wait.”

He suddenly had a strange idea.

With the combat aid system switched off, it currently takes about two minutes to load the musket himself. This was already shortened by practicing extensively.

1……That is, 2 minutes for loading. If the target is about 100m away it will take another minute to go to collect items. 3 minutes per head.’

But now?

‘8 seconds to hunt. Even though the item didn’t come out, you can pick it up immediately. It only take 10 seconds per rabbit’

3 minutes versus 10 seconds.

The same experience and time spent trying to get the same item.

He couldn’t help getting sad.

‘Am I musketeer?’

His steps toward Candle Castle suddenly felt heavier.

“Quest completed.”

“Oh! So, was the ferocious rabbit worth dealing with?”

“It is stronger than I thought, but it is only a rabbit.”

Leeha smiled, forcibly ignoring the past when he had a blood fight with the rabbit. The NPC in the chain mail asked Leeha with twinkling eyes.

“So where is the evidence?”

“That…… Ah，Leather. It doesn’t end with only a conversation.

Once users complete their quest, they should show proof of that. Leeha took out ten rabbit skins that were piled up in a bag.

“Hana，dol，set…… yol gae. That’s perfect. Thank you, stranger! What’s your name?”

“My name is Ha Leeha”

“It was a great help to the Candle Castle Police Force, Ha Leeha.. Me, and the guards thank you in the name of Candle Castle.”

『You have completed the ferocious rabbit hunting quest.』

『In the Candle Castle, all NPCs and shops increase by 10%.』

『Intimacy with the Candle Castle Guards is increased by 15%.』

“Here is your reward.”

Substantial quest rewards were handed over to the laughing Leeha. Is it really necessary to give the item before getting the reward, can’t we just trade directly?

『Acquired 50 copper..』

“Only 19,999 gold 99 silver 50 copper left.”

“Hmm? What did you say?”

“I-it’s nothing.”

He couldn’t stop his laughter as he grabbed a pocket of coins into his bag.

A long and difficult journey up to 20,000 gold.

Finally, the first step was taken. It was a ridiculously small amount compared to the target amount, but the joy was indescribably great.

“Oh, you don’t want rabbit meat? Give me other jobs…”

“Nice to be motivated! But the work of our police force is quite dangerous. Even considering the safety of Ha Leeha-kun, I can’t leave you with an unreasonable task. If it’s rabbit meat, the restaurant in the central fountain square will buy it. They always lack meat.”

“Ahh!”

Leeha realized immediately.

There is a level limit in the Guard quest. However, the difference is that the tone is a little softer than before. Was it because intimacy increased?

“Okay. Can I come back at level 5 or so?”

“I’m not sure what level the strangers are talking about, but that should be enough..”

“Thank you, platoon leader Jiart.”

“Yes, see you again.”

At Leeha’s words, the Guard Captain Jiart nodded.

Even in one of the gestures of giving and receiving greetings like this, Leeha felt that the intimacy was rising.

(To be continued…)
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“Fountain, fountain, fountain Plaza.”

Musket’s strap on his shoulders danced.

Leeha can’t remember a single time he was flustered while carrying a gun.

Every time he took a step, the gunstock tapped the back of Leeha’s knees.

Leeha walked with a sense of rhythm and looked around.

“Recruiting party members for wolf hunt! Level 9! We have a tank and a healer! We only need one dealer left then we can go!”

“Looking for party members for Golden Eagle Nest Quest, let’s go together~ Tankers, especially welcome.”

“Who’s looking for a mage? I’m a level 5 mage looking for a party. I’m looking for a party that can play until level 10~ I plan to play all day!”

The noise became louder as he approached the central square.

The shouts of users searching a party and bargain to exchange items from the hunting ground. All of this was enjoyable to Leeha.

‘Kijung said that this isn’t the only beginner village, yet there are still so many people. That’s good.’

This means that it still isn’t too late to start and grow. It is a fact that the worse the game is, the fewer the new users are.

“Huh huh huh!”

“Huup.”

A middle-aged man suddenly appeared next to the fountain while screaming. Raising his arms and covering his head as if to protect himself from falling.

‘Did I do that too?’

Leeha still remembered the feeling of “falling” into Middle Earth. Leeha felt proud when he saw the middle-aged man looking aroud with round eyes.

And finally, the restaurant the Guard Captain told him caught his eyes.

‘It’s here.’


A shopping street that always runs along the intersection of the central square. With the overlapping knife and fork that seems to be common all over the world.

“Hello.”

“Ommomo! Welcome to the ‘Holy Grill’. Are you alone?”

By Middle Earth’s standard, it was already the end of the day, and there were quite a few people in the restaurant that were either users or NPCs.

Eating in the game? It’s fun too. Also, didn’t Kijung talk about energy or hunger?

“No，I didn’t come to eat.”

“Ah，then what are you doing here?”

“I came to sell rabbit meat.”

“Oh my goodness! That’s great, I’m still in need of rabbit meat. The most famous thing on our grill is the rabbit sauce. Customers always look for it. OHonghong, good. Come this way.”

Following Madam, Leeha passed through the hall and entered the kitchen.

‘There are a lot of people.’

On the way, orders were pouring in asking for beer or adding two servings of meat.

“Are there many strangers eating here?”

“Of course! Some eat here, and some order take outs. You need to eat in order to have strength. It’s also helpful for recovery, and it’s a great help.”

“I see.”

Should I eat here too? Fortunately, there are no signs of hunger right now.

“Chef! There is someone who came to sell meat, can you look at the meat quality?”

“Yes，Madame.”

A thick voice with each step, it’s like the kitchen is trembling.

Kueung, kueung, and a person approached. No, it is not a person.


No matter how tall they are, wouldn’t it be scary to call someone who appears to be around 2m50m a person?

Even more so when the knife they are holding appears to be heavier than Leeha.

“Oh，oh…”

“Oheungheung, is it the first time you see a Giant?”

I saw it when I first chose a race, but was it this big?

Right, I saw in the description. 2.5m. But seeing the description and seeing the real thing is a completely different story.

“Take out the meat.”

“Oh, oh, yes. Here.”

Leeha became humble without even noticing. He opened his bag within 30 seconds, it would be amazing if he could reload the musket that fast.

“Hmm. The meat brought by stranger’s spoil quickly. The bone on the side of the eyebrow bulged out.”

The giant inspected the rabbit meat.

“I-is that so? I tried to shoot only the head…”

“Hmm…… This is good. I couldn’t use the meat brought by the other strangers. Madam, this is very good.”

The giant looked satisfied. And Leeha, who imagined what expression he would have had if he was not satisfied, trembled for a moment.

“Kiyomi, how much do you think I should pay him?”

“They are all about the same size. 7 copper per head will be nice.”

“Omomo，isn’t that a lot?”

I wanted to say, ‘It’s too cheap!’, but because of the name of the giant Madam said, I stopped myself.

What, what? Kiyomi?

‘Hmm，Cute? If the height is about 3m, then if the body is proportional then. I don’t think it’s a cute size.’


Keuheum, Keuheum. Leeha coughed and cleared his throat. That must be huge.

“We can’t do it if Kiyomi says that. I’ll give you 7 copper each. There are six, so a total of 42 copper.”

“Please call me Kiyo-Mifgar, madam.”

“I like Kiyomi better. Ohonghong, come here, stranger.”

The Giant roared in a small voice, then went back to grooming the meat.

Madam went back to the counter with Leeha. As she handed the coin, her eyes shone.

“By the way, if you are bringing such high-quality meat… … Could you help us with this?”

“Work? What?”

“It’s a job to get meat for the restaurant, what do you think?”

『Support for the development of a new menu for the Holy Grill-1』

Description: Madam Lu fell in love with the rabbit meat you brought.

‘Wouldn’t this person be able to get black-haired rabbit meat?’ She needs you for her ambition to create the best Middle Earth meat restaurant!

Content: Non-perishable rabbit meat (0 / 5), black-haired rabbit meat (0 / 1)

Reward: 1 Madame Lu special lunch box using a new recipe.

-Do you accept it??

‘Hmm? What is the reward… …’

Leeha also loved meat, but should he accept a quest to gather meat in order to eat meat in game? However, Leeha focused on something else that was written in the window and the smiling eyes of Madame Lu.

Cooperation-1.

‘Linked quest?’

There might be a linked quest after finishing this one, I would need to hunt rabbits to level up anyway, so it won’t hurt to try.

“What is unbroken rabbit meat?”

“It just needs to be of the same quality as what you’ve got now.”

Five. It’s not difficult. I just need to kill the rabbits instantly by shooting them in the head. Gunpowder and ammunition can be obtained at any time.

“So what about black-haired rabbit meat?”

“I don’t know if you can get it. It is said that among the ferocious rabbits, there is one with poisonous black fur. The taste of its meat is popular in the capital, but you should try it to know. It’s stronger and bigger than normal rabbits, and it is hard to find.”

Madame Lu sighed and exhaled.

Leeha’s eyebrows twitched at what he heard. He learned of it’s information in the community.

‘Isn’t it like a boss? No, they said that the boss monster of Candle Castle is like a bird. What is that rabbit?’

Monsters that appear only when special conditions are met.

It refers to a monster that does not appear in the place where normal monsters appear, but appears only depending on the situation. According to community information, it was very difficult to find.

“Do you know where I could find it? I want to get it, but I can’t catch it unless I know where it comes out.”

“Omomo? Of course I know! I know how to lure it out. However, I can’t give any information to strangers who might spoil the meat. Oheungheung.”

Madame Lu’s eyes looked like a half moon.

“How can I get the meat if I don’t know how to find it?”

“I can’t believe there’s a stranger who is stupid enough to have to ask about that~.”

“I am just making sure. Okay, I will do it. I will get good quality meat and I’m getting it right away.”

Leeha pressed the yes button. Madame Lu’s facial expression changed, and she handed a small pouch of leather to Leeha.

“If you go straight through the south gate, you will see a forest. If you hang this pouch on a tree, you’ll find the guy who its smell. Don’t miss the chance. Oh, it only comes out on a moonlit night. Oheungheung.”

Pouch? He accepted a pouch that smelled strangely nasty.

“Okay.”

“Okay, you know what happens if you try to cheat with weird meat, right? Our chef hates people who play around with food.”

“I’m sure he does. Probably.”

It’s terrible to imagine a knife thrown at him.

“Then, I’ll wait for you to get back as soon as possible. Is. that. Clear.”

Leeha smiled awkwardly and came out of the holy grill.

50 copper, which was the first reward, and 42 copper, obtained by selling rabbit meat. It was a smooth start.

That was what Leeha thought before entering the general store.

“No way! What is so expensive!!!”

“If you don’t like it, don’t buy it. We don’t have a lot of stocks.”

A half bald old man with one eyed glasses sat down on the sofa, with a dismissive attitude towards Leeha.

Leeha didn’t see any customers in the first place.

“Ajussi- No, teacher, boss! If black powder and iron ball ammunition are so expensive, how are the musketeers in this land living?”

“Uhm, uhm. That’s why there aren’t many musketeers in this land.”

“This-”

That makes sense.

“No matter how much you want to profit, you should still be humane.”

“Oh, “humane”?”

“Kkeuk”

How can an NPC say something like this?

“I’m the one who caught the ferocious rabbit at the request of the police chief. To be more helpful to Candle Castle! May I ask for a discount?”

“How many times do you think I’ve heard it so far?”

“Haa…”

Leeha’s head fell completely.

What kind of game had such a high level of Artificial Intelligence? Without taking a step back, he refutes Leeha’s statement, with valid arguments.

Now Leeha is getting pushed around by an NPC.

10 copper for 1 bag of black powder, 3 copper for 1 iron ball bullet.

Leeha burnt his 92 copper by buying 7 bags of gunpowder and seven bullets. Then exactly 1 copper remains.

‘What about quality rabbit meat? You can’t buy a bag of gunpowder, right?’

He can sell a rabbit for 7 coppers each, so he couldn’t buy gunpowder with a single rabbit, and if he bought 2 iron ball bullets, there’s only 1 copper left. Should this be accepted as a Musketeer’s fate?

Or are users who shoot bows similar?

‘Because the attack is fast, they will use more. Musketeer would be better. Please! Let’s think about it like this.’

That was his only comfort.

After Leeha put the gunpowder and bullets into his bag, the owner of the general store opened his mouth again.

“It is not ordinary gunpowder.. As you may have noticed when you were using the musket, the technique of processing the gunpowder like granules is only used in our Kingdom of Fibiel and the Kingdom of Minis. If it were in another country, it would still be using powdery powder. If you handle it incorrectly, it will explode, or if it gets wet, you can’t shoot it properly. You don’t want your musket to explode, right?”

Leeha at least knew the names and locations of countries revealed in Middle Earth, so he could understand what he was being told.

Candle Castle belongs to Fibiel, a powerhouse in the center of the continent. And Minis, who developed national power based on the wide grassland.

“Of course I don’t, but do you even sell the powder form?”

“Tsutsu, we don’t sell it here. Who will sell something so dangerous?? Maybe ignorant guys from Kraven sell them in the store.”

Kraven, a maritime powerhouse, is fighting with Fibiel and is in alliance with Minis.

Leeha could tell without having to rummage through his bag.

The remaining 14 bags of black powder, 14 iron ball bullets. Rabbit meat is only 7 coppers per piece, and it is not always available, so it cannot be maintained if he only hunted rabbits.

(To be continued…)
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‘I need to hunt something stronger. Something more expensive. At least something worth more than 13 copper or more. No, let’s wait for a while. To do Madame Lu’s quest, I shouldn’t be hitting it with a musket’s butt. Inevitably, I have to save 5 shots for the rabbits.’

The quality of the meat was the best when the rabbit was hit in the head and got instakilled, so it was out of the question to kill rabbits by bludgeoning them to death.

‘It’s not that I can’t do it, Kiyomi, no, the Giant. gulp. I have to stop such a situation. Anyway, I could see the following by stopping by the general store. The reason why musketeers, which is not so popular, is becoming less popular. Maybe it’s because you can’t cross this hurdle.’

“Please. 7 each. Here is 91 copper.”

Chalkchak, chalkchak. Leeha’s coins were stacked on the counter.

9 stacks of 10 and a coin next to it. Only then did the general store owner, who was sitting on the sofa, stood up.

He quickly put the bread he was eating in his mouth and smiled brightly.

“Thank you sir. If you have any good items, please come to our store.”

Wow! Is this the merchant NPC that wasn’t hospitable and screaming a while ago? Leeha was embarrassed, but quietly took the 7 sets and put them in his bag. Now he can shoot a total of 21 shots.

Leeha, who was stepping out the door, turned his head. He wondered if there was a quest here, too, so he tried talking first.

“Oh, do you need any help?”

However, only one corner of the owner with a one-eyed glasses’ mouth rose.

“I do not know. If you buy 7 gunpowder, I will tell you. Hahaha.”

“I’ll pass.”

Leeha left the grocery store with his teeth clenched. Damn it, I’ll have to wait and see.

“Only 1 copper left?”

The joy he had, thinking that he had stepped closer to 20,000 gold disappeared. Rather than being happy, if being a musketeer is such a costly job, how can he save money?

‘I should have chosen something like a mage too. You don’t need money when you cast magic!’

No matter how much he regretted it, it was already too late. Leeha turned his head with tears. Still, he was not completely without income. Leeha was able to get a hint from the general store owner’s words.

‘Isn’t there a separate condition for giving quests? The Guard Captain saw my level and gave me a quest. It’s the power of Outlanders, so what can he do? And in the restaurant? Madame Lu gave me a quest based on the quality of the meat.’


Kiyomi, no, getting the Giant to judge that the meat was of good quality may be the prerequisite for receiving the quest from Madame Lu.

It made sense to see meat at a meat restaurant and give quests. And what about the general store?

‘Money? It was like it was difficult to tell the people who only bought 7 gunpowder. What if I bought 10 gunpowder at once? No, wasn’t it a condition to receive the quest to prove that you had a certain amount of money other than gunpowder?’

Leeha got upset just remembering the half-bald headed owner, but he was able to get a rough feeling. If one showed what they needed in the store, one could receive additional quests.

It became clear from this that it was not possible to receive a quest simply by walking around the village and talking about anything.

‘Basically, you have to do what each store wants. I could have missed most of this too.’

Just like Madame Lu’s quest right now. The quality of the meat was judged to be good and was not spoiled because he was a Musketeer and he was able to kill the rabbits instantly with a single shot, but what about the general occupations, especially characters with sword or spear?

What if he went to sell meat with a knife? If he went with a bloody and spoiled meat, he would not have passed Kiyomi’s inspection.

‘Good. Yes, yes! Since I’m a musketeer, wouldn’t I even have a quest like this?’

Even if he was a mage or an archer, the thought that the result would have been the same passed for a moment, but Leeha shook his head quickly. Leeha’s steps stopped at the central fountain square because he felt hungry.

『Vitality has been reduced to less than 40%. Penalty is applied if it is reduced below 30%.』

“To make matters worse, I’m getting hungry now. Did it drop from 100% when I first created my character to 40% now? I don’t know what’s left and how much is left.”

Besides, what would one do if they knew they were hungry? He didn’t have money to buy.

‘What can I get at Madame Lu’s shop, all I have on me is 1 copper? Huh, to hell with it.’

Leeha shook his head.

‘They should give some bread to beginners. Middle Earth is really too much.’

Leeha looked around, it’s a game that had a restaurant, there should be a bakery as well. And in Leeha’s eyes, a signboard in the shape of a baguette was seen.

Leeha entered the bakery with a jingle and fragrant smell.

“Hello-”.

“Oh, sorry. Business is closed now.”


Before even saying hello, he was interrupted.

“Yes? Is the business closed? Do you close the store?”

“Sure, it’s dinner time for us too.”

The female NPC with a pigtail touched her head and smiled awkwardly. Certainly, the sun is almost set and I understand that it’s dinner time, but if the NPC says that, the story is different.

Even closing the door of the store is too cruel.

“Can’t I just buy one bread quickly?”

“Hmm, yes, okay.”

While saying “okay”, the NPC with a pigtail turned the signpost in front of the door from OPEN to CLOSE. It was very high level to give notice.

“Let’s see-aik?”

Leeha’s eyes who was looking at the prices were wide open. There were 3 copper, 4 copper, 5 copper and even a 7 copper bread which has the sae price as the rabbit meat that I sold to Madame Lu.

“Uhhom, Khom.”

In the corner where I barely turned my eyes, it says 1 copper, but only the empty bowl remains, and there was no bread.

“Uh, the bread looks pretty good. Seeing that there are quite a lot of things that have run out. Haha.”

The only bread that had not run out was the 1 copper bread. The NPC with a pigtail also smiled at Leeha’s smile.

“Yes. I can’t even make a lot of bread these days. Especially, I tend to go out as soon as I make one copper bread, which is insufficient in quantity.”

“You can’t make bread at the bakery?”

“Because the supply of wheat is difficult. Hoo, and the rabbits will kill us too. Prices are also unstable.”

The Leeha’s head began to spin while looking at the sighing NPC.

‘Rabbit? Right. The eat meat, and they also eat crops. It must be a headache.’

Just looking at her current attitude, he could understand the heart of the bakery girl. What if you think that every single conversation like this is a hint?


‘Quest What the bakery wants is wheat flour.’

Besides, is the keyword rabbit? That is great. There is no law that you have to pay money to buy bread. It was so realistic that I almost thought Middle Earth was real.

If you don’t have money, this is a place where you can use your body.

“Keuheum, heum, I got rid of some rabbits a little while ago at the request of the Guard Captain of Candle Castle. Well, I’m not bragging. But, can I get some bread in exchange for killing some rabbits?

“Oh, did you, now? But there are quite a few people who say that. Eung，by the way, since the rabbit’s reproductive rate is much faster than that of the strangers, my business will be done if I accept such a request, right?”

Leeha noticed that the bakery girl revealed her teeth.

‘Doesn’t it look like she’s saying ‘Don’t mess with me. I’m not helping you.’?’

Leeha felt it once again. The artificial intelligence of NPCs is too high. Still he didn’t give up. He needs to sink his teeth and not let go!

“Of course, there will be many people like that. But I was also asked by the holy grill owner. She appreciated my rabbit hunting skills. To catch a black-furred rabbit-”

“Black Angus?!”

“Hmm? Oh? Yes，Black Angus.”

Looking into the round eyes of the bakery girl, Leeha nodded first.. Is Black Angus the name of the black rabbit?

“Surely! Um, I don’t want to be the one to tell this to you but. I don’t think you have the skills to catch Black Angus. Ohohoho, wasn’t I a little harsh?”

“Ah，I-is that so?”

You shouldn’t say it if it was bad. Even after saying that, the bakery girl still smiled brightly.

Leeha felt that the conversation was nearing its end, and he felt that he was in the middle of one last crisis.

What could he do to prove himself?

“Ah! Here, would you like to see this?”

An item flashed to Leeha’s mind.

“Omo，really……. It was from sister Lu’s. This smell……. Hmmm, so you’re talented enough to be entrusted by Lu-unni.”

The small sachet. The baker’s face changed when she saw the smelly leather pouch.

“Then, can I ask for it?”

And finally, the bakery girl came over. Leeha pressed and held back his desire to sing with delight.

“Ehem，what favor do you want?”

“No big deal Black Angus, no, you can do it while you’re catching a black-haired rabbit.”

『Gathering Spices at Risk』

Description:’If you are a person entrusted by Lu-unni, you might be worth trusting… … ?’

It is said that there is an herb that grows in the spot where a black-haired rabbit turns its stool. It enhances the aroma of bread, but it must be kept secret where it was pulled.

Content: Buwak Herb (0 / 3)

Reward: 1 bread sprinkled with buwak herb powder, 30 copper

-Do you accept it?

‘At the same time……?’

Leeha, who was reading the quest window with a light heart, swallowed a dry saliva while seeing the name of the quest that does not seem easy at all.

What kind of quest can you do while risking your life?

‘And what’s this ridiculous reward?? One bread sprinkled with rabbit dung herbs and 30 copper? Spice-gathering at risk?’

Are you saying that the life of a stranger is only worth a rabbit’s poop and 30 coppers? It was a reward that made him angry and embarrassed, but Leeha did not show it.

“Black Angus means that black-furred rabbit, right?”

He still needed to gather information.

With neither yes nor no choice in the quest window, Leeha spoke to the bakery girl.

“Yes, that’s right. There are rumors that that rabbit became ferocious. As the name suggests, black Angus is covered in black fur and always gets angry.”

“That…… I see. I’d like to help you, as you said it can be done at the same time when I’m doing my quest, but this is a little……”

“Hmm? What do you mean by that?”

When he looked at her eyes, Leeha’s heart almost weakened for a moment, before barely talking by avoiding her gaze.

“It’s not easy to eat and live even for Outlanders. I also like bread so much. I’m hungry now and I don’t have the strength to go catch it. I think eating a little bread will give me energy.”

“Ah, bread. If you say it like that, I could give you some bread crumbs.”

But the bakery lady didn’t budge.

The subtle and awkward air flowed between Leeha and her.

At that moment, a sound came from Leeha’s stomach once, and it eventually grew louder and louder.

“You don’t have to give too much First of all, once my stomach is full, wouldn’t I be picking up some of the Buwak Herb or something? Trust me and give it to me, okay?”

“Right……. What if you eat and run away.”

“Yes? No way. How could I do that? No matter how strangers are, they don’t do such shameful things!”

“Right.”

Shuwook. Leeha wondered why the quest window was blurry, then, the letters started to change.

Reward: 1 bread sprinkled with buwak herb powder, 30 copper, +15% affinity with all NPCs in Candle Castle

Awards: 3 sweet croissants

Limit: It needs to be completed within 12 hours before the opening of Annie’s Bakery.

In case of failure -20% intimacy with the bakery owner Annie, -10% intimacy with all NPCs in Candle Castle

-Do you accept it?

“Ho，really. No, the 12-hour condition for giving 3 breads? Does it mean I need to finish it tonight and give it to her tomorrow morning?”

Moreover, the disadvantage in case of failure is enormous.

I can lose the intimacy I gained by beating up rabbits with the musket’s butt.

I don’t even have any information on how to use the pouch and how to hang it on the tree, but I need to finish the quest in 12 hours? Leeha thought about getting angry, but his attitude changed in one sentence.

“I’ll give you bread in advance. Sweet croissants. Our most popular product. 3 Breads.”

(To be continued…)
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Chapter 15

‘Okay, I will do it even if it’s dirty.’

Of course, he can only say that to himself, and Leeha smiled brightly.

“Hehehe. Thank you, I will try my best.”

When Leeha pressed the Yes button, annie brought some bread from the basket.

Sweet croissants, high quality bread with the price tag of 6 copper each. He got more by using words, although it was risky.

“Here, as part of my request. I’m Annie.”

“I’m Ha Leeha. 12 hours. Please wait for me. I will definitely get it.”

“Please, Ha Leeha-nim.”

Nim? I was treated like a beggar just before. Huh, is it a realistic game, or a game like reality, isn’t it more brutal than reality?

“The bread is delicious.”

Leeha got out and went into the corner of the alley and took a bite of the bread. It was quite sweet. Damn it, is this bread wet with tears?

He was trying to take a bite again, but something unexpected appeared before his eyes.

『Learned Bargaining skill.』

“Hmm? Skill?”

So suddenly? Leeha opened his skill window.

『Beginner’s Bargaining (Lv.l)』

Description: High risk, high return. You can get additional rewards by going all in. Keep in mind that a negotiation isn’t about throwing a tantrum, it’s about listening to the other person’s wants and providing it quickly!

Effect: Depending on intimacy, there’s a 20% chance to change the condition of quests and it is possibe to trade items with NPCs.

“What do you mean tantrums? Right, so what do I need to do? I have to finish the quest within 12 hours.


‘The scariest thing in the world are humans. Did Goople want to prove this? Is it really necessary to implement human-like NPCs like this? I felt like I lost all my energy while bargaining.’

After Leeha ate a croissant and filled up his stomach, it was already night and dark in the central fountain square, but there are still a lot of people.

And Leeha heard a shout.

“We are looking for party members~ Those who want to go hunting the black rabbit, please come!”

‘Black Rabbit?’ The person who was shouting seemed to be a warrior.

He is wearing armor that is a mixture of iron plate and leather, while holding a weapon that looks like an iron rod and a shield in his other hand. Leeha did not know whether the man was a user or NPC, unless the man revealed his name first.

“Are you going to hunt the Black Furred Rabbit?”

“……Yes.”

“Ah，you are. What is the required level to join the party?”

“Umm，what job do you have?”

“Mus- no，I am a ranged dealer.”

The shield warrior’s eyes looked up and down. With just that glance, he could see, no, in fact, he wasn’t friendly to begin with.

The man with a bow behind the warrior said.

“I don’t think you can do it yet.”

Next to him, a man with a strange book stared at Leeha. Seeing that the book was white, he should be a healer.

Leeha answered.

‘I was just asking. Just asking. Haha.”

The healer answered.

“Well. It should be at least 7 people. And we have eleven.”

Leeha was hopeful, but the man with the bow shook his head and waved his hand as if annoyed.


“Ignore him and save a spot for other players. Look at his shoes, it doesn’t seem like he’s level 5.”

“Right. First, let’s get one more dealer and then proceed.”

“Even if it’s just a rabbit, it’s still a boss, and we don’t have any information. We can’t do the quest again when we die.”

“Although it can take a while, we need to get a user at our level before we start.”

The archer and healer said without looking at Leeha. Of course, Leeha listened to them in order to get information from their conversation.

However, he was driven away by the archer who was in the same party as the warrior.

‘If your level is low, you’ll be treated like that. To be ignored by 11 people or so. Level 5? Shoes? Damn it. I have to get stronger quickly. By the way, is there a black rabbit quest at their level? They can’t do it again when they die?’

Leeha looked at his quest. There was no part saying that if you die. Then they have similar but different quests. It is enough information. He was completely ignored, but he did not change his expression. Even if he can’t join the party, he can still get useful information, as the saying goes, you can’t spit on a smiling face.

“What quest do you have?”

“It’s a fur quest, and I don’t think it has anything to do with you.”

“Ah，I see. Okay, thank you.”

Leeha was still polite to the arrogant users until the end.

Raising his voice and fighting won’t help, and he had already obtained the information he wanted.

‘There is a quest to get shoes at level 5, and there is another NPC that gives a quest related to a black rabbit fur. Is it a costume related quest?

Anyway, the armor and clothing store are also near the fountain square, so I should go there. Like in the bakery, if I show the pouch from Madame Lu, I may be able to obtain the quest more easily. And they said let’s take one more dealer, right? Looking at their combination, one tank, one dealer, one healer.’

Leeha was a soldier, so he had good eyes. As a result of looking at their equipment, it meant that it was a quest that could be handled by 4 people from level 8 to 12 anyway.

‘The remaining time is 12 hours.’

Leeha looked at the sunset in the sky. Now that the moon has just risen, it is time for the black-haired rabbit, the Black Angus, to appear.

‘Still, there is no need to rush, hunting and leveling up comes first. Currently, my stats are close to level 8-9, but my actual level is 2. Others are also accumulating achievements, so I shouldn’t be fooled by numbers. First, rabbit hunting. And with the determination that once I go out, I will not return, I must take all the quests at once. One rabbit for one bullet. There is no unit price for one quest. If the shops are closed at night, I cannot meet the merchants, so I have to move as fast as possible. I need to hurry.’

“Thank you, ma’am. I will choose a very nice guy with soft and warm fur.”


“Oh, this young man makes a nice speech. I’ve finished measuring your size, so I’ll work on your clothes.”

“Aigu，Thank you for the words alone. Haha, then I’ll come tomorrow morning!”

Leeha politely closed the door as he stepped out of the dressing room. He has a face full of laughter, are his hardships at the grocery store and the bakery finally paying off?

Leeha opened his skill window.

『Beginner’s Bargaining (Lv.2)』

Description: High Risk, high Return. You can get additional rewards by going all in. Keep in mind that a negotiation isn’t about throwing a tantrum, it’s about listening to the other person’s wants and providing it quickly!

Effect: Depending on intimacy, there’s a 21% chance to change the condition of quests and it is possible to trade items with NPCs.

In just an hour, Leeha got three black-furred rabbit related quests.

‘Heuheu，The skill level quickly became 2 because I changed a few quest conditions and succeeded, right? No, the skill was obviously helpful, but my conversation skills have increased quite a bit. Now I roughly know how to talk to NPCs. I have to scratch the itchy area.’

Anyway, NPCs are the inhabitants who risk their lives in this world. It is highly likely that the words spoken by strangers as if they were playing a game would sound rude to them, so of course they hate it.

As he learned at the bakery, he was able to receive some help as a good reward thanks to the condition that he would finish the quest in one day.

‘Meat in a restaurant, herbs in a bakery, fur in a tailor’s shop, claws in a weapon shop. And eyeballs for the accessory store. Poor black rabbit, you’ll be looted off from head to toe. The herb is said to sprout in the black-furred rabbit’s poop, which means not only from head to toe, but also poop. Such a pitiable guy.’

Leeha did not get out of Candle Castle until he got all the black-furred rabbit related quests from the NPCs.

‘Looks like they’re already gone.’

Leeha, who leisurely walked out of the south gate, looked at the users around him.

Even though it’s night in the game and the surroundings are dark, he was still enthusiastic about hunting. Leeha felt his blood boiling.

‘Let’s spend the next four hours on leveling.’

Leeha opened his bag.

Not enough ammunition and gunpowder. It cannot be used to catch rabbits.

‘Money… … Until I save enough money… … I can’t help it’

Leeha locked his bag tightly.

5 shots needed to get quality rabbit meat. Other than that, Leeha looked at the musket and held it upside down.

‘Am I really a musketeer or a fighter?.’

Leeha sighed and gave strength to his hand holding the muzzle.

“Come on, you guys.”

Kkui? Kkui, kkuit-!

Teok，Teok.

The rabbit’s screams and Leeha’s laughter echoed in the air and looking at his appearance, users below level 5 were surprised to see him.

“No matter if it’s a game, it’s too cruel.. Is he hitting the rabbit with a stick?”

“What is that? There’s a job with a stick like that? What? What the hell is that?”

“Oh? Isn’t that a gun?”

“Gun? What gun? There’s a gun in Middle Earth?”

“Heol! Amazing. But that butt is very strong.”

“I have to hit three times with my sword, but that person only needs two. Crazy… … How does he have so much strength”

“Is he a warrior? But why the gun?”

Despite people’s surprise, Leeha did not go anywhere.

One rabbit, two rabbits, three rabbits… … Now somehow he had to catch one more rabbit.

The buzz of the surrounding users who saw Leeha was growing. No matter how much they look at, he looked like a user with a similar level to them, with strange weapons, strange hunting methods, and considerable attack power.

Rumors about an ignorant user wielding a blunt weapon on the beginner hunting ground of Candle Castle quickly spread. Questions about odd jobs in the community also boomed for a while.

(To be continued…)
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Chapter 16

『You leveled up』

‘Done. Huuu.’

White light wrapped around Leeha’s and then disappeared. The light was bright enough to drive out the darkness of the night.

After more than four hours of hunting rabbits, he was only able to get to level 5.

‘It went up relatively quickly to level 3, but.’

Of the four hours worth of hunting, it took only 30 minutes to get from level 2 to level 3, it took 1 hour and 10 minutes from level 3 to level 4 and 2 hours 20 minutes from level 4 to level 5.

‘How long would it take to get from level 5 to level 6 while only catching rabbits?’ His body trembled.

‘The achievement of “selling all rabbit meat”. The user who caught 1,000 rabbits would have taken 4 days without taking a break in order to get to level 9. Terrible,just terrible.’

Anyway, I’ve gotten used to hitting rabbits with the musket’s butt. Sometimes a critical would burst out or an instakill occurred, there was a rabbit that died in one hit.

One life in one hit.

One life in one shot.

Butts and bullets were becoming the same.

“Huuu. It’s just my feeling that the mood is getting darker, right?”

This might be the reason why the highest level after 4 months since its release was in the early 200s, even considering the time ratio of reality and game was 1 to 5, it might also be the reason why the highest level user is a tank.

‘I also learned one more thing, repeated action raises stats.’

It was information that the community already knew, but in reality, it is not something that a lot of people can do.

Should they repeat an action until their teeth are shaking?

‘It went up because it’s now. It is said that it will get worse in the future.’

I gained 1 strength after beating up rabbits for four hours. That’s right, it should be done for four hours. In a game that only gives 5 stats per level, an additional point would be of tremendous value. However, it is said that it is 4 hours in continuous motion at first, and then the time increases exponentially.


‘In order to increase the strength by 1 point, I now have to beat it for 16 hours without stopping. It was said that it will be reset after a certain period of rest. What’s next? 4 to the third power. 64 hours?’

For 64 hours, you can’t sleep and continuously use your strength. From here on, it is already the limit of physical labor. That’s the amount of time you need in order to get the third additional point of strength.

Yes, even the third is okay, but what about the fourth point of strength?

‘4 to the 4th power……. 256 hours.

Moving without rest for ten days in order to get one point. What’s next?’

‘1024 hours……. You need to continiously move without sleeping for 42 days.’

This information is not yet confirmed. It was revealed that there was someone who worked hard for up to 256 hours, but after that, it was said that they gave up because their stats did not increase.

However, based on the rule, it was only estimated that it would take 4 to the 5th power.

‘The developers are really vicious.’

Was it to prevent labor? It might mean that they want users to focus on Middle Earth instead of simple repetitive actions.

“Character Window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 5 (0%)

Title: None / Achievement: 4 HP: 200 / MP: 70 Stats: Strength 23(+13)

Agility 35(+25)

Intelligence 12(+2)

Constitution 13(+3)

Mind 10

Points Remaining: 20

‘Besides, it’s too battered. Somehow, it seems that the Musket’s butt board is slightly loose.’ Only when the butt board is firmly fixed, can the shoulder attachment also be firm.

If the shoulders are stable, you can shoot the bullets wherever you want. Wouldn’t it be a big problem in the future to overwork the butt to get some more rabbit meat?


I did it because there was no other way, but my heart was heavy.

A game where neither weight nor stamina is shown in figures. There is no way to show weapon durability as a number. Gunpowder is 10 copper per bag, but if the musket is broken.

‘I need to stop before my belly button gets bigger than my belly.’

Leeha looked at the height of the moon. It’s almost midnight now. From the beginner’s hunting ground, he walked and walked along the road, until the forest where the black rabbit stood.

‘This, isn’t it quite scary?’

Even in the army, he was on the sidelines at night.

‘Besides, I was still walking along the road, and I could see people around me, but it was scarier than I thought. All of a sudden, the rabbits disappeared and what can be seen are beasts like foxes and wolves.’

The wolf’s howling on the hill gave him goosebumps and finally, when the entrance of the forest began to be seen from a distance, a group of parties came into the Leeha’s eyes.

‘Hunt?’

Leeha instinctively lowered his body. They couldn’t see Leeha because the distance was quite far away and he was approaching from behind.

‘1, 2, 3? 4?’

Leeha approached with his body lowered.

It was only after hiding behind a rock near the forest that he began to hear their conversation.

It was a familiar voice.

The jerks that were looking for a dealer in the square.

Did they start hunting?

“Dealer! Deal with it quickly! Save me!”

“No, no! You have to drag it with your aggro! I will cast it in about 30 seconds! Archer, come here! You can’t go there!”

“I want to go quickly, quickly, but I can-! This isn’t a low level quest! Aaak!”

Leeha raised his head and looked at the situation.


‘Is their opponent a black-haired rabbit?’

“Damn, the archer is dead, but I’ll get its aggro first, hit it fast! Provoke!”

The man holding the shield screamed. It wasn’t clear what he was holding, but it was obvious that a fierce fight had taken place.

“I’ll start casting!”

A female voice. The white light gathered on the body of one user , and red light emanated from the body of the other.

“Ah, shoot a little quicker! Give me that heal, please. Hurry up! Heal! Why am I bleeding so fast?”

It was obvious that he was flustered. They were at each other’s beck and call, as if there was no clear leader in the chaotic party.

After about 10 seconds.

“Minor heal!”

“Fire Arrow!”

White particles fell over the head of the man holding a shield, and a burning arrow shot into the forest.

‘Uh! That’s magic.’

The magic I’ve never seen in Middle Earth. Approximately 10-20 seconds from casting to activation. I remembered the words that urged her to shoot quickly. I could only laugh.

‘You need to be thankful that it only takes 20 seconds instead of 1 minute.’

Suddenly, I heard a scream in the woods.

“Kuwaak!”

“Blood! Tanker!”

“Ku, damn it! Run away, quickly! quickly!!”

“Yes?”

The man with the shield fell and soon turned gray and scattered. The mage and the healer standing behind began to retreat.

And kueung, the noise is heard from the woods.

“Kyaak!”

“Waah!”

The two started running like crazy.

“Oh my god. What is that?”

A few small trees fell.

Black fur that did not reflect the moonlight, but because it was black, the outline was clearly visible.

However, the rabbit shaped monster was the size of a bull, so I was not able to recognize it for a while.

‘Hyeol! What’s worse? There were two! Ah! That’s crazy! So that is Black Angus? This is crazy.’

The black and angry. You can’t blame Annie from the Bakery to call it Black Angus.

It’s was the right description. But even so, isn’t this too much?

Kkul Kkik. Leeha swallowed dry saliva.

Two black rabbits the size of a bull started chasing two users, one for each.

“Hey, healer, the tanker died because you couldn’t get the heals in time!”

“Why, why is that my fault! In the first place, this monster is not for a low level quest! Run, run fast! You’re over level 5, so if you die, you’ll level down!”

“I know, you bastard! We won’t be able to access it for 48 hours!”

The two cried out loud in the field at night.

However, Leeha felt a strange feeling. The one who was swearing is the woman, and the one who was mumbling is a man. Leeha nodded as he saw that the woman had a rough mouth.

Yes, this is the world these days.

“Somebody help! Somebody get the Black Angus!!”

The healer shouted, but Leeha quietly hid behind the rock.

Four level 10 users failed to hunt it.

There is nothing Leeha could do. If helped, he will die without being able to shoot at the rabbit the size of a bull.

‘Come to think of it, I felt pain when I was hit by a rabbit as big as a cat. I think I’m going to break a bone if I get kicked by those guys. How painful would it be. Tsk tsk，it’s a pity.’

Goople’s explanation for making the pain realistic came to mind, but it’s hard to think about it right now.

The sound of screams asking for help continued to spread across the field filled my head.

“Save me! Anybody there!”

‘I can’t go out even if I want to, I won’t be able to catch it. No, wait a minute..’

An ominous thought passed through Leeha’s mind.

Why should I care about that? Right now, I am not the target of the attack, that means I can still hide.

‘I have five Black Angus-related quests, and four of them have been received within the time limit of 12 hours, so what am I doing now? Isn’t that what I have to kill anyway?’

I just thought it wasn’t relevant, but now it’s the opposite.

Four people around level 10 have failed to hunt it, and I must catch it by myself.

Is it possible?

‘Absolutely impossible. It might be possible if it’s alone, but not two.’

I don’t know how much health they have, or how much damage must be dealt to kill them. If I turn off the combat assistance system and load it, it takes at least 2 minutes to load. Black Angus wouldn’t just be watching.

“Kyaaak! Kyaaak!”

Yes, I can’t deal with both sides at once, but I wonder if I could try it with one. Now Black Angus’ aggro is focused on those people.

‘If I don’t go out now, I won’t be able to do it at a later time.’

Besides, for that damn bargaining skill or something, Leeha needs to finish the quest within 12 hours.

At the Tailor’s shop, weapon Store, and Accessory Store, including the Bakery, the stores open in the morning and were waiting for Leeha to bring the items.

What if he couldn’t bring it?

‘When I fail the quest for each shop, the penalty will be village intimacy -10%, and the total is -40%. I might become the worst guy in the history of Candle Castle?’

Previously, he liked that he had successfully used the bargain, but now he was not sure.

Of course, he thought he could improve the quest and only thought of a high return, but he did not consider the high risk.

I regret it very much, but there is no medicine for regret. I have to make a choice.

“Huuu, huuu Crazy. I am really crazy.”

Leeha opened his character window.. He put all the stat points he had accumulated up to level 5 into his agility.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 5 (0%)

Title: None / Achievement: 4 HP: 200 / MP: 70 Stats:

Strength 23(+13)

Agility 55(+25)

Intelligence 12(+2)

Constitution 13(+3)

Mind 10

His total agility, including additional stats based on achievements, was 55.

It was a number that can only be achieved by putting all the stats you get from levelling from level 1 to level 9 into agility. Adding the fact that his weapon was a musket. Although it is a “low-level crude musket.” if it came to attack power, it can be considered as the strongest for low class weapons.

Putting it simply, the attack power of one shot was strong enough to be comparable to other classes that have raised their level for a while.

I opened the bag and picked up a bag of gunpowder.

The probability that they can during the reload time of nearly two minutes? None. If so,

“Hey! Look here! Run down the hill and come to this rock!”

The words to run in the diagonal direction did not come out properly. However, it must have been a voice like God’s salvation to those who were running.

“I-I’m alive! Help me!”

“Damn, only one person is there! The rabbit is slow when you run from a high place to a low place, so run like that!”

I am not sure if it’s the case for the crazy rabbit, but looking at its body structure and short front legs, that should be true.

Leeha continued loading with a shout. Pour gunpowder into the muzzle and add the iron ball bullets. The wind is blowing, and the ramrod is lifted and pressed.

Reload complete.

“Save me faster, you bastard!”

The woman shouted at Leeha.

“B-bastard?”

He don’t even feel like crying. Anyway, if that swearing woman died, Leeha would be next.

The barrel was supported by the hollowed part of the rock. Leeha moved into the knee-shooting posture, and turned his eyes to the scope.

‘Stay calm. It’s okay.’

Now that he was level 5, when he died, he won’t be able to access the game for 48 hours and his level would go down by one. However, none of those thoughts came to Leeha’s mind while he was holding the musket.

The worst and best results are erased from his head. Because, a gun won’t hit just by imagining it.

“Huu，Haa…”

He controlled his breathing. Dugeun，dugeun.

It was not a forced heartbeat caused by the combat assistance system, but a natural pulsation felt by focusing all the body’s power.

He was so focused that he was able to hear his pulse.

The current distance was about 100m. Leeha waited.

“This bastard, I’m not kidding! What are you doing, help me quickly, I didn’t call for help so we could die together!”

The woman yelled on the top of her voice, but it did not enter Leeha’s ears. Huu, haa.

85m. 80m. 75m.

‘A little bit more.’

Still, the success rate will only be around 65%. The most important thing when dealing with muskets is the guts.

He had to hold his breath until the end.

The first person to get his head out of the water loses.

65m.

Now, the shape of a woman seems quite detailed.

Is she sweating? In normal circumstances, Leeha would be able to see that there was something swinging in front of the woman, but the current Leeha did not notice it.

He was only focused on finding the Black Angus’ weakness.

Where is the heart? No, was it better to aim for the heart? If one thought about the area to be hit, that would be better.

Probably the heart was near the upper part of the forelimb, so even if it misses, it will still hit the leg or side. It will hit in areas that can get quite hurt.

But what if it doesn’t die with that much damage? It will run with its legs limping. What if it throws a somersault kick?

Both Leeha and the woman must be prepared to die.

If that’s the case?

With the lack of information, Leeha could only think of one place to aim.

“Huu，Haa-”

43m. 41m. 39m. He could see the snot and drool in the woman’s mouth.

Leeha’s index finger moved.

(To be continued…)
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“Kyaaak!”

Ram Hwayeon blocked her ears from the sudden sound of a gunshot.

What she saw up close was the white smoke emanating behind the rock. She wanted to look back, but she couldn’t.

Beyond the white smoke, there was a healer who was knocked down by another Black Angus’ kick.

Black Angus slowly approached the fallen healer and started eating with his arm.

Blood poured out and the healer opened his mouth wide.

‘Did I get lucky in this misfortune?’

No screams can be heard in the ears that have been dazed by the gunshot.

“Haa，haa.”

Hwayeon’s legs softened as she watched the terrible appearance of a human being eaten alive by an animal.

The healer immediately turned into a grey light, and he was judged to be dead and would not feel any pain, but it was a terrible sight that will remain a trauma to those who have seen it.

‘And now I. If I knew it would be like this, I would have contacted them earlier.’

Now, who will she blame? At level 9, the fire arrow skill was level 3 and she was proud, she was confident that she could burn the black rabbit to death in one shot.

There was no information on the whole website, and the thought that it was a rabbit anyway created this situation.

She didn’t anticipate that two would appear at once. It was logical that when the archer died, they all should have ran away.

How much does she need to struggle again to get to level 9 if her level dropped to level 8? Additionally, she wouldn’t be able to connect for 48 hours.

‘Hmm? But why haven’t I heard anything?’

Her legs felt weak and her knees were shaking.

The man who emanated white smoke from behind the rock was shouting and asking her what she was doing.


“It’s over, so come over here quickly and help! When it finishes eating, it’s our turn next! Are you not a mage?”

‘Why don’t you do it yourself?’ Despite the chaos Hwayeon raised her voice to herself. Normally, she would get angry when other people were talking about her class, but now she was more curious than angry.

Finished?

“Surely?”

Hwayeon slowly looked back. The Black Angus, which was close enough that she could feel its snot from the nape of her neck, collapsed.

Blood was leaking from the hole in its eyebrows, soaking its black fur reddishly.

“Dead?”

“This，shit! If I knew this would happen, I would save the healer first. Cast quickly, we have no time! Go ahead and prepare the fire arrow or something!”

Hwayeon woke up to the voice behind her. She didn’t know what the man hiding behind the rock was doing, but it’s clear that he caught Black Angus in one shot.

‘High Level? Did he catch it in one shot? What level is he?’

But why is he rushing? Hwayeon thought that he should be able to hunt the other one in a single shot like the one from before, but this doesn’t appear to be the case as he was rushing her while sweating. She could not understand what was happening.

Kyuoooo—!

The low and long cry of the Black Angus rang.

‘It released a “Kyuooo” sound, but it sounded so scary.’

And at the same time, Leeha realized. He shouldn’t have gotten involved. After saving the mage who used flame magic, they would join forces to catch the Black Angus heading for the healer!

This was Leeha’s plan. However, the plan failed from the start, the healer was hit on the foot, fell down, rolled a few times, and died miserably by being eaten by the rabbit after reaching the limit of his health. Or maybe he overestimated the courage of that screaming mage woman. He thought she would swear and summon a fireball or something when he rescued her, but she froze and was tearful. Now is the time to pay the price of overestimation.

‘If I run away while reloading, I will only be wasting gunpowder.’

Leeha removed the gunpowder from the musket and picked up the ramrod.

“I wouldn’t have saved you if I knew you were this stupid! Damned bitch, run quickly!” Leeha jumped out from behind the rock and started running.

“What? Damned bitch?”


“Do you get upset by being sweared up?! Damn it, damn it! Because of you, I will die!”

He heard a sound of someone catching up from behind him. The problem was that after a while, he felt the ground shaking.

Black Angus, no, now the Black Anger has started running.

Besides, there is no downhill slope anymore.

Go up, run on the flat ground. Anyway, Leeha and Hwayeon ran together in the terrain that was quite advantageous to rabbits.

“You’re not going to fight?”

“Why should I fight? If you have the strength, shut up and run!”

“T-this bastard!”

“Are you going to talk like that to your lifesaver?”

Kyuooo—!

“Waah!”

“Somebody save me! This rabbit chews people!”

I felt the magnitude of the vibration coming from behind me more and more.

First death? Am I going to die in vain?

‘If I knew this, I wondered if I should have gotten anything like leather or meat from the body of Black Anger, that I had succeeded in hunting.’

Then Leeha saw another person walk slowly in front of them, her straight blue hair fluttering in the moonlight.

“Duck.”

“W-what?”

The blue color didn’t just come from her hair, the body of the woman walking in front began to shine with blue light.

“Hwajung-ah”


‘Hwajung?’

Leeha heard the voice of the woman shouting from behind him. Someone she knows? Is she here to help? However, even if he thought about it for about two more seconds, he would still die.

“Ice spear.”

“Kyoouuuu!”

An Ice spear flew in front of him. Leeha fell and slid down the floor.

“Kyaak”

And the same with the girl behind him, Hwayeon fell as well. With the Ice Spear being hidden from the sight of the Black Anger with Leeha and Hwayeon’s body, it was not able to react.

Kuung. The bull sized rabbit fell loudly.

Kyuuk，Kyuuuk!

“What… was that?”

Leeha’s mouth was wide open while looking at the Black Anger, who had stopped moving and got stuck to the floor. It is obvious that no matter how well it can run, when its legs are frozen, it cannot move.

“Take care of it quickly, sister.”

“Hyuu，thanks. But why didn’t you come quickly? I’ve been trying to contact you for a long time.”

“The ice will melt soon.”

“Understood. Ah! And you! Just wait!”

“Me?”

As Leeha saw her finger point at himself, his expression distorted. Did she want to say something?

No，‘Is it a good thing you’ve been upgraded to “you”?’

While looking at two amazing and absurd women, Leeha realized that the hair of the woman who had pointed her finger at her was red.

The cursing mage started to chant, and the red light emanated from her body matched her red hair.

It can also be seen that this is a preparation process to use magic.

At the same time, Leeha’s mind raced.

“Wait! Hey, I helped you catch one, so we have to party! Tell your name, name!”

When that chant is over, something will pop out, and then the Black Anger will die.

“Ram Hwayeon (Lin Huayuan)!”

“Oh, how do you apply for a party?”

He hadn’t been to a party before. In fact, since he leveled up while beating a rabbit with a musket butt, he wasn’t able to level with anyone else.

“Hey! What is your name!”

“Ha, Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha!”

“Fire Arrow!”

Shuwak, a burning arrow was created in the air. The Black Anger, whose legs are frozen and stuck to the floor, was like a target for practice. The fiery arrow pierced its heart accurately, and the body of the Black Anger with a long cry began to turn gray.

Black Anger, who had been bleeding after being hit by an ice spear, died in one shot.

『You leveled up.』

“Ha Leeha, it was breathtaking.”

Leeha’s body was covered white, the light that illuminated the dark night with a Paang -! When it disappeared, he felt refreshed. According to the level up effect, hP, mP, stamina, and vitality were restored to full. It is one of the few kindnesses Middle Earth gave to its users.

“Huu. Oh. Wait! Are you taking all the items?”

“I killed it.”

“What? Then what about mine?”

Hwayeon squeezed her chin while looking at Leeha with an absurd expression.

The one who died in one shot, the one left in the distance, caught his eyes.

“It seems fair, but strangely not fair.”

Leeha moved to the loot while complaining.

He obtained all of the quest items: rabbit fur, meat, eyeballs, and claws.

“Wait! Stop there!”

“D-Do not follow me.”

Leeha moved without looking back. However, the woman with red hair and the woman with blue hair, who was warned not to follow, ignored it and followed Leeha.

“Why? Why are you going into the woods?”

“You don’t need to know. And why are you talking informally to me? Even if we fought a battle with our lives on the line.”

“Your，what are you talking about now? It’s because I am older than you! And you spoke informally first!”

Stop.

Leeha’s steps have stopped. It’s funny to say something childish after going through a situation where lives are at stake, but he had something to say.

“No, are you proud of being older? Yes, I also talked like that when we were in a hurry but the situation is different now. You don’t seem to be too old. Maybe twenty-three or four, but let’s not do that,shall we. And I’m much older than you.”

The red-haired woman’s face turned red.

Leeha also realized it only after he finished speaking.

‘Oops, is it a compliment for women to look younger?’

Leeha scratched his head. Talking to a woman is also difficult.

Plus, the short blue-haired woman. From Leeha’s perspective, he seems to be the strongest of the three, but he has no words and he couldn’t even laugh, so the atmosphere felt awkward.

“H-heung. Even if I say that, I’m not interested in you. You, don’t you know our Hwajung? Ram Hwajung(Lin Huajing)!”

The red-haired woman put the blue-haired woman in front of her.

However, a blue-haired woman, Ram Hwajung, only looked at Leeha with expressionless eyes.

“Ram Hwajung? I do not know. Nope.”

“You don’t know Ram Hwajung, the Snow Flower Beauty of Hong Kong? Are you a Middle Earth user?”

‘Ram Hwajung? Hong Kong? Snow Flower Beauty? So it wasn’t a nickname, it was a name? No, you can say that it’s a nickname.’

Anyway, Leeha did not know.

(To be continued…)
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“Do you guys know the Korean Ha Leeha? And since I’m also a Middle Earth user, you should also know me. Anyway, squirrel and Ram Hwajung, we should part ways here. It wasn’t my intention, but I had fun hunting together with you.”

Leeha bowed and turned again.

But he had to stop again after two steps.

“Buwak Herb is over there.”

The blue-haired Hwajung’s voice stopped Leeha’s steps. Did she already know what Leeha was trying to do?

“Buwak Herb? Hwajung, what is that?”

“Quest Item. This person is looking for it.”

She was able to tell? However, stopping my footsteps is already the same as admitting it.

Leeha remembered the quest conditions. I think I told you not to tell anyone. Will the quest fail if someone finds out this way?

So he quickened his pace to get away from those two.

“It’s okay between users. You cannot tell it to the NPCs.”

Hwajung spoke as if she read Leeha’s thoughts.

“I-is that true?”

“Heo，What the. Did you just try to keep away from us in case we try to steal the quest item? Our Ram sisters?”

He knew that the Blue-haired Ram Hwajung had strong ice magic, but this red-haired woman and Ram Hwayeon, where was she getting her confidence from? Was it because she was going around with her younger sister and they were a package, was that where the Ram sisters come from?

But he couldn’t even ask, and most of all, she was right about the quest item, he really did think that they might take it.

“Oh，umm. Haha.”

“Haha?”

He laughed awkwardly.


Looking at Leeha, Ram Hwayeon’s eyebrows frowned, but she didn’t look bad or ugly. No, even while frowning, her pretty face is still maintained.

‘I was nervous so I didn’t notice, but the two of them were good-looking and one-of-a-kind.’

“I saw it from a distance. Killing Black Angus in one shot.”

Hwajung raised his finger and pointed at Musket.

“Right! How did you do it? No matter how much I look… … Um, level 5? I don’t think you are level 7 anyway. Besides, the Black Angus you shot wasn’t even the one who got hit by magic. How did you kill a full health Black Angus in one shot?”

“Yes? I got good, no, I got lucky.”

Leeha tried to talk casually too. There’s no need to explain it to the sisters as they will be leaving anyway.

“Oops.”

“What?”

Leeha remembered the notification he put away because he was busy reloading and running away.

‘That’s right, and it turns out I. Did I catch it in one shot?’

Leeha read the system messages he received.

The sound effects rang belatedly.

『Achievement: Black Rabbit Hunter (E)』 Congratulations! You have succeeded in hunting the Black Angus, the king of the Candle Castle ferocious rabbits.

Effect: Strength +1, agility +1, intelligence +1, stamina +1, spirit +1

『Achievement: One shot, one kill – Black Angus(D-)』

Congratulations! Instakilled Black Angus in one blow! Aren’t you ashamed of playing in the beginner zone at your level? Get out of the beginner zone quickly! But you still receive a small gift for the achievement, right?

Effect: Strength +2, agility +2, intelligence +2

『Title: Knows a little about weaknesses (E-)』

You know a little about critical hits and instakills.


Effect: Agility +3, intellect +1

“Oh oh? Oooohh!”

“Why? Why?”

Hwayeon was surprised by the sound Leeha made. One title and two achievements! In addition, Leeha was pleased as this is the first title he got.

‘An achievement that gives +1 to all stats? Well, since I don’t know what kind of job I will get, isn’t it better to have all stats increase by one? Good, good And one shot… … What is this?’

They don’t compliment a kill in one shot, this explanation is strange.

Aren’t you ashamed of playing in the beginner zone at your level? Is that something you say to a Level 5, no, to someone who has just reached level 6?

‘No, no. Okay. These two women were surprised. What if catching Black Angus in one shot in the first place isn’t something you can do at this level? Still, seeing that the Hall of Fame didn’t open, there must be more than three players who achieved this. Anyway, they’re amazing people.’

High level users are like hungry hyenas looking for achievements. The 100 million cumulative subscribers should not be underestimated. Leeha felt good because he got something that only high-levels acquire. And Leeha even got a hint in the title. The stat raised by the title that mentions critical hits and weaknesses.

‘Intelligence? It means that it’s not just something that only users with Jobs from the Wizard System need to get. That’s right. At the training center, the instructor with a prosthetic leg said that combat is done with the head and not the body. Why did I only realize it now.’

In the end, it means that no matter what job it is, it is inefficient to focus on a single stat. Of course, there will be some priorities, but it is not unreasonable that the job characteristics constantly change depending on the method of allocating stats.

‘As I reached level 6, there were 5 stats that I haven’t used yet.’

“E-Excuse me? I’m not going to steal the quest item, so let’s have a talk, yes?”

Red-haired Hwayeon crossed her arms and stepped back.

The system window would only be visible to Leeha, so she stepped back away from him, who was suddenly fumbling in the air.

“Ah! Hmm, hmm. I see. Wait here. I’ll get back soon!” It was a little disgusting that he had to remove the herbs from the rabbit poop, but he could see the glistening grass from the direction Hwajung pointed.

It was fortunate that he didn’t smell the sticky stuff on his hands, no, if no one was looking he would have smelled it out of curiosity. Rabbit poop.

Anyway, Leeha collected the Buwak Herb and satisfied the conditions related to the black-furred rabbit.

“Yes!” And the Ram Sisters were looking at his delighted appearance.

—-


“Chaaa! Then, to commemorate that we are alive, cheers!!”

“C-cheers.”

Candle Castle’s Pub. When Leeha and the Ram Sisters returned to the village, it was already dawn, and most of the shops were closed.

Of course, the users of the town square were noisy, whether day or night.

“Paha-! I can drink this much beer! Right, hwajeong-ah?”

“It tastes awful. I want to drink cola.”

“I agree that it does not taste good. What beer is this?”

Hwajung and Leeha frowned for different reasons. With a concept like a butter beer, it has a mild aroma and a sweet taste. Even carbonic acid makes your throat itch, but at least it’s different from the beer Leeha knew.

The red-haired Hwayeon is drinking deliciously with bubbles overflowing, so she looked like a child.

“But what do this people do? You look like a beginner, but you look like an expert. Thanks for letting me see something good.”

Leeha, who took another sip of butter beer, opened his mouth. One of the things that surprised him the most when they entered the village were these women.

As the Red-haired Ram Hwayeon confidently said, blue-haired Ram Hwajung was a celebrity of Middle Earth.

Much, much more than Leeha imagined.

Even the guards of Candle Castle are making a fuss at Ram Hwajung, the Cryomancer.

If the NPC looks at a user with an attitude similar to looking at their superiors, it meant that their reputation or national achievement is enormous.

Of course, it’s not just NPCs. There was no way that general users will not know the user who is famous to the guards.

The fact that the town square, which used to be crowded with business people and people looking for parties, became quiet in no time, all because Ram Hwajung arrived.

Even if you look at it roughly, there were close to a hundred users grouped together, and wherever Ram Hwajung looked at and stepped on, the path opened like the miracle of Moses.

‘Thanks to them, I also drew attention.’

It was not unreasonable that users were interested in the two people who went with Ram Hwajung.

No, Leeha could still feel the glances towards them right now.

“5th in the Asian level ranking and 9th in the world level ranking. You really don’t know our Hwajung?”

“Pooheup.”

“Kyaak! You, you.”

“Ah, sorry. Sorry.”

Leeha wiped the butter beer flowing on his chin.

‘What? What is her ranking? World ranking 9?

If 100 million cumulative subscribers are lined up at that level, the person who can stand in the ninth is that blue-haired kid?’

“You really didn’t know. Hmmm, then I’ll overlook your cheeky attitude before.”

“Hey, I didn’t know. Why is that cheeky? What did I do to you? And when we came to the village, you’re talking informally again, and I’m much older than you. Did you say you were twenty-three?”

“T-twenty，kuheum,kuheum! Why is that important!”

‘What if that doesn’t matter?’ Although Leeha pointed it out, Ram Hwayeon did not seem to want to use formal language again. Should I be happy that she is not calling me a ‘Bastard’ anymore. In the end, Leeha gave up on the thought.

“Anyway. You’re the big sister?”

“Right. Ram Hwajung, cryomancer and Ram Hwayeon, the Flame Mage!”

“Wouldn’t it be a little embarrassing to call yourself a Flame Mage when you couldn’t even catch Black Angus?”

“What can I do, that’s the name of my job!”

“Ah, so you were confident of your job name. Ram Hwajung was just fiddling with the beer, as if she wasn’t interested in their banter.”

“So. What are you? What did you do to catch Black Angus in one shot?”

“I shot it, it died.”

Leeha drank a bit of a butter beer.

“W-what, that tone! Can’t you speak faster?”

“What more should I say? What should I say other than saying that I shot it and it died?”

“What is your level?”

“Do I have to tell you that?”

“This-!”

Leeha chugged and smiled. Looking at the personality of Ram Hwayeon, he thought that she will be ignorant of the NPCs at Candle Castle. If you don’t take the initiative in conversation like this, you won’t be able to learn the “bargaining” skill in your life.

‘Why does it seem that my speaking skills improved after I came to Middle Earth?’

Ram Hwajung, the Cryomancer, opened her mouth as she looked at his smile.

“Instakill.”

“Hmm?”

Ram Hwajung looked at Leeha.

No, are you looking at Leeha? Her eyes looked at Leeha, but her gaze was unfocused.

“Level 6, agility 55, lesser Crude Musket ATK 233. It is impossible even if you consider the increase in attack power with the agility correction and the accuracy correction due to the musket mastery. In this state, even if a critical hit is blown, it is impossible for one shot. So Instakill.”

“Oh? Oh?”

Stat? Item? Skill? How?

Suddenly, Leeha’s face became hot, after getting the feeling of being naked, without being able to stop it.

“No way! There’s no way a Level 6 can catch that monster in one shot! No, I mean, we caught the second one and leveled up, so he was level 5 then.”

“I told you. Instakill.”

Ram Hwayeon’s eyes grew as if they were popping out.

Ram Hwajung also spoke straightforwardly with her eyes shining, showing considerable interest on Leeha.

“How much do you need to kill Black Angers in one shot?”

“If you catch it with a normal attack without a critical hit, it should be around 90.”

“What 90? Strength?”

“Level.”

Heok，Ram Hwayeon took a huge breath and stared at Leeha. It was so silent that the sound of Leeha’s blinking eyes could be heard.

Leeha and Hwayeon’s eyes met while blinking.

“Oh my gosh……. You just got to level 5? No, looking at the 55 agility, he seems to have gotten some achievements, but that kind of stat is similar to a level 9 player, right? Can you overcome more than 10 times the level difference? Is that even possible?”

When Hwayeon is excited, her voice and movements get exaggerated.

Even while sitting, she was relatively tall. From her body, which raises her voice with her hand gesture, something fluttering came into her eyes.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha tried desperately not to look at her.

Hmm, a Hong Kong woman.

“W-What if a critical hit goes off? Then, what level should it be, hwajeong-ah?”

“The assassin class job must also be at least level 70. The probability of instakill from a normal attack is one in ten thousand. Almost none. Above all, black Angus is a hidden boss. You can get it at low level, but the difficulty is equivalent to a level 30 monster. If you die, the quest will fail, and most users ignore it due to automatic deletion.”

“Heol.”

This time, Leeha sighed. Was it that great? No, that’s right. It makes sense, that’s the reason for the description.

Aren’t you ashamed of playing in the beginner zone at your level?Get out of the beginner zone quickly! From the point of view of the artificial intelligence, the person who reached level 90 came to catch the hidden boss of a beginner village.

“Ho, really. I didn’t know that. Even after researching, I did not have enough information. I should research more thoroughly.”

Hwayeon shook her head and sighed.

Until then, Leeha was only listening to their words.

There weren’t only one or two hints to get from their conversation.

‘When a normal attack triggers an instant death, she is talking about the combat assistance system. Tsk，The answer is to turn off the combat assistance system and manually aim for weakness. And the fact that the instant death system is a tremendous element that can reduce the difference in level by 10 times at once. Of course, it is possible because the center of the forehead iss a weak point, and that I aimed correctly at it.’

“But how did you know my stats?”

“Scroll.”

‘There’s something like that?’ Leeha nodded as if he knew. If he knew the price of a Scroll, he might have fainted.

“Okay, Korean Ha Leeha.”

Hwayeon tilted her upper body while supporting her arm on the table. Her tone changed a little.

“Yes? How did you know I’m Korean? No, I was the one who mentioned it.”

When Hong Kong’s Ram Hwajung said something, Leeha said it himself, he asked if they knew the Korean Ha Leeha. Now it was a very embarrassing statement. In front of the 9th in the global rankings, what right does he have when he’s not even level 9 yet.


“The level is low, and the job is unique, but I like it.”

“I’ve been saying this for a while, but I’m sure I’m a lot older. Don’t-”

“Would you like to join our guild?”

“-keep talking. Yes?”

Leeha’s eyes widened.

Ram Hwayeon, stroked her red hair expressionlessly and opened her mouth again.

“Are you going to join our guild? For now, our Hwajung is the guild master.”

“What?”

‘For now?’

Ram Hwayeon herself is the real guild master, but since her level is low, does it mean that the younger sibling is the guild leader “for now”? Ram Hwayeon’s self-confident attitude made Leeha curious about her.

But now, being invited to join their guild got him confused instead of curious.

“You know I’m level 6?”

Ram Hwayeon nodded.

“Also, as your younger sister said, I am wearing something like a ‘lower-grade crude musket’”

“We can buy the best item you can wear, eventually.”

“Do you know how precious Middle Earth money is?”

Ram Hwayeon raised the side of her mouth without answering.

The smile that said that there was no need to worry about it.

Therefore, Leeha refused.

Ram Hwayeon’s mouth did not come down.


“Heung? You don’t know yet? The meaning of the proposal I’ve made now?”

“I don’t know, so I have to refuse. My mom told me not to follow someone I don’t know who gives me candy.”

At Leeha’s words, Ram Hwayeon and even Ram Hwajung smiled.

“Kek. Good. Contact me if you change your mind. Anyway, since we invited you to join our guild. Is it okay to add you as a friend?”

“If you speak a little more politely, it might be okay.”

However, the request to add a friend popped up without an answer from Leeha. Leeha pressed the Yes button.

“I’ll pay for the bill. Oh, and thank you for saving me.”

Hwayeon stood up from her seat.

“Saving you? Ah. That?”

If Lee Had not stepped out from behind the rock at that time, Ram Hwayeon would have surely died.

She was calling Hwajung for help, but before the two met, black Angus would have eaten Ram Hwayeon.

And since she had seen the cruel death of the Healer, who was in the same party, Hwayeon was even more grateful to Leeha.

“Let’s go Hwajung”

“Yes.”

Leeha looked at the blue-haired Ram Hwajung for a while. Suddenly, a window for adding a friend popped up in Leeha’s eyes.

This time, Leeha was also a little surprised.

Ram Hwayeon added him as she was around level 10, but a ranker directly wanted to add him as a friend. Leeha pressed yes with a casual face.

While Ram Hwayeon went to the exit, Ram Hwajung kept looking at Leeha.

“Hwajung quickly”

“Oh，umm……. Are you not…… leaving?”


Even at Hwayeon’s call, hwajeong did not move. And Leeha was uncomfortable with this expressionless little lady.

“See you next time.”

“R-right. So.”

“Oppa.”

What-ppa?

The Leeha’s head tilted, and Hwajung turned around and left.

The big tall redhead and the small tall bluehead.

The Ram Sisters of Hong Kong left while receiving the gaze of users in Candle Castle Pub.

“Whew……. Storm like people, storm like quest.”

Leeha fell on the pub’s table.

Suddenly, laughter leaked out, he felt that he had been recognized for his worth, and he was very satisfied that he had completed all the quests related to Black Angus.

‘Oops, I have to go before the sun rises.’

After having a breathtaking night, now it time to get the results.

“Ohh, this red eyeball. You really got it in one day! Sorry if I ignored you before!”

“You’re welcome. Please give me quests next time as well.”

“Of course, of course! What can’t I entrust to the person who caught the Black Angus in one day?”

The owner of the accessory store put his hands into his pocket.

And every time he shook it, the sound of coins sounded and made Leeha’s ears happy.

Tada!

『You have completed the quest to obtain the red orb of freaky hobbies.』

『Friendship with all NPCs in Candle Castle increases by 15%.』

『Intimacy with the owner of the Candle Castle accessory shop, Kutir, increased by 15%.』

『Acquired 90 copper.』

“Indeed, the claws are sharp. Where did you get this guy? That’s it. Because of this guy, even the rabbit around Candle Castle seems to have become ferocious. Heum, heum. I heard that the black-furred rabbit is powerful, but my God. I can see from its claws. Thank you! I will make a weapon with this.”

“Make a great weapon, boss.”

“Ha Leeha-kun, thank you. Thank you, thank you!”

Snap. Chap，Chap. Leeha’s is grinning from ear to ear.

Tada!

『You have completed the ground dagger quest.』

『Friendship with all NPCs in Candle Castle increased by 15%.』

『Intimacy with Tikel, the owner of Candle Castle Weapon Shop, increases by 15%.』

『You have acquired 80 copper.』

『You leveled up.』

‘Oh? It also gives you experience! Well, it was the king of rabbits.’

Leeha left the weapon shop and moved. In the Tailor’s shop in the early morning, the lady owner was already waiting for Leeha.

“Omo，This is it, this is it! How is the color of the fur so fair?”

“Even in the moonlight, how smooth the black was, it was amazing.”

“Riiiiight! Thanks Leeha. If I make a coat with this, it will turn out well.”

It’s a rabbit fur coat. It is definitely an item that sells well even in modern times. Leeha nodded and scratched his head, and the aunt in the Tailor Shop brought the goods.

『You have completed the luxurious black coat quest.』

『Friendship with all NPCs in Candle Castle increased by 15%.』

『Intimacy with Sandy, owner of Candle Castle Tailor Shop, increased by 15%.』

『You have acquired a Common Quilt Top(Khaki).』

“Now, this is the reward I promised. I thought it would be perfect like this, so I gave it extra effort. And this is spe.cial.com.pen.sa.tion.”

“Special compensation? It wasn’t mentioned before.”

“The rumor about Leeha has spread all over the place. Aren’t you the number one contributor on Candle Castle shopping street? I’m sorry that I can only give this much.”

『Acquired 50 copper.』 『Skill-level of bargaining has risen to 3.』

“Oh, thank you, madam!”

“Can I ask for your help next time?”

“As much as I can. Then I’ll stop by next time!”

“Yeah, there are pants that go with them, so come buy them!”

Leeha squeezed out the benefit until the moment he got separated from the owner. He completed three quests in an instant.

‘The rumor spread? Is it the NPC intimacy in Candle Castle’

If you combine the rabbit quest from Guard Captain Jiat, Leeha’s current intimacy to all NPCs in Candle Castle is a whopping 55%. It means that wherever he went, they will treat him favorably.

In the alleyway, he quickly removed his old clothes and put on the common Quilt Top, the clothes fit nicely to Leeha’s body. His shoulders were wide open enough, and his waist was moderately well-formed. Compared to the tunic, which is darker and has a longer neck, it is a tremendous change in appearance.

‘This beginner’s clothes. Still, it is a waste to throw it away. Will they give me 1 copper if I sell it? Or I might be able to use it as a rag later, so I have to take it with me.’

After folding the beginner’s top and putting it in a bag, Leeha headed to the bakery. It’s time to cook the NPCs who made him suffer one by one.

“Welcome, annie’s Baker- Oh my. Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Hi. Looks like you just opened the Bakery.”

Annie, the owner of the bakery with a pigtail, who was responding to users who visited the bakery even in the early morning, stopped and looked at Leeha, her eyes as round as a rabbit’s.

In addition to the words of the owner of the Tailor Shop that rumors have spread to NPCs, she seemed surprised by Leeha’s clothes.

“Yes, yes the first breads have just been baked. Would you like a taste?”

“Taste? No. I still have the bread you gave me last time. I don’t have money to spare. Haha.”

“Money! Do you think of me like that? I’m sorry. Take your time and eat some bread. You haven’t eaten breakfast either, right?”

Were we in that kind of relationship? If she knew his circumstances from before, that Leeha only had one copper in his pocket, and was not able to complete the quest in 12 hours, the bad rumors about him would have spread. A cute pigtail with a hidden dark side. Leeha trembled watching Annie’s attitude change in a single day.

‘Women are scary. Did she even hear rumors that the hunt was successful? She changed her attitude in an instant.’

Annie took out bread and milk and handed it over to Leeha.

“You eat first while I’m working. Sit here.”

“Then, I’ll eat it well.”

Following Annie’s instructions, Leeha sat on the chair. The users who were choosing and buying bread were busy looking at Leeha talking to Annie.

“Hey, what did he do, the NPC also gave him bread?”

“I know, right. Besides, it’s expensive bread. I completed the quest to get flour 4 times but I was not able to cut the price down to 1 copper.

“I do not know. I’m not sure either. Haha.”

Leeha smiled brightly as he drank milk. A quest to get the flour? If you compare such an errand with the Black Angus Leeha will be sad.

‘Although familiarity with individual stores is the same, the intimacy of the whole village is important. That’s right. The British ajussi was like that too. The rumors between merchants are fast.’

In other words, among the merchants at Candle Castle, there was a consensus that Leeha was useful. After Leeha ate the free bread and milk, annie, who sent the users out, approached.

“Well, so, what about herbs? What about herbs?”

“Here.”

『You have completed the quest.』

『Friendship with all NPCs in Candle Castle increased by 15%.』

『Intimacy with the Candle Castle Bakery owner, annie, increased by 15%.』

『You have acquired 30 copper.』 『You leveled up.』

‘Also. The difficulty of the quest was very low. Looking at the hours it took in order to level up and hunt.’

Leeha nodded his head with a happy expression.

“Ara. But what about bread? You should also give me bread sprinkled with buwak herbs.”

“I have to make it. I’ll make it right away, so please wait.”

“Oh, is there something special about that bread?”

“Yeah? Absolutely! Its aroma! Can’t you smell this thick aroma?”

‘It is grass grown on the spot where the rabbit’s poop fell, what thick aroma?’ However, annie was sniffing the herb and chewing it as if it were food.

“Anyone who likes bread will probably flip over? Just smelling the scent makes you feel good. Well, what is the need to know about the taste of bread.”

“Yeah?”

“No? I didn’t say anything.”

Annie’s expression seemed to have changed in an instant, but Leeha’s effort was ignored.

“Then I’ll be making it soon, so wait!”

He waited about ten minutes. and Leeha received bread as the final reward.

It’s a bread that people who like bread go crazy for, although he didn’t know where to use it.

“Completing the quest is also difficult. It’s the last.”

Leeha headed for the Holy Grill.

(To be continued…)

Homeless in the game?

How good would it be? (Laughs) – Author-nim?
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“Omomo, our Ha Leeha is here〜? Are the rumors true?”

“What kind of rumor is it?”

“That, didn’t you go to the pub earlier? How can I not know what’s going on in Candle Castle? I heard all the news of your successful hunt.”

The restaurant auntie doesn’t seem to be so kind.

‘Besides, how did she know about going to the pub earlier?’

Now, Leeha’s Candle Castle NPC intimacy is 70%.

If it reaches 100%, it might be possible that NPCs will let him stay at their house at night.

“You don’t need to get confirmation from the chef?”

“There’s no need since our Ha Leeha did a great job. Let me see it.”

“Oh, oh yeah.”

Leeha took out the rabbit and Black Angus meat that he had obtained while hunting alone during the night.

“This is black-furred rabbit meat.”

Madame Lu’s expression changed, her eyes had the light similar to a woman looking at diamond.

“Two of them came out, and they were so big. I had a hard time.”

“That’s what I heard. Don’t worry, we will give you a special reward. Ohonghong, what will it taste like if you grill meat with this?”

Chalgeulag, a coin pouch was placed on the counter. And babam! The sound effect rang.

『You have completed the quest.』

『You have acquired 50 copper.』

‘Oh, that’s right. This is not a place where the conditions were changed with the bargaining skill, and the affinity did not increase.’


Leeha was a bit disappointed, but he was still satisfied. In the first place, the quest for Black Angus started here and he was able to bargain with other NPCs.

“It will take some time to make the lunch box, right?”

“Um, I’m going to be cooking it anyway, so it will be done soon.”

And as she spoke those words, madame Lu leaned her upper body against the counter, and leaned her face to Leeha. A quest window appeared. Leeha regretted that his prediction was right.

『Coordination with the development of a new menu of the Holy Grill(2)』

Description: To be the best meat restaurant in Middle Earth, you need to make one more dish.

‘If it’s Ha Leeha, he might be successful. With the Candle Mountain’s monstrous Golden Eagle’s Roast Wing and Oriental Barbecue added, the Holy Grill’s “Truth” will come to fruition.

Content: Golden Eagle Meat (0/1)

Reward: 1 Madame Lu special lunch box using the Golden Eagle

‘Linked quest, this.’

Madame Lu opened her mouth before Leeha could even start reading.

“You know the Golden Eagle in the mountain behind Candle Castle? Guard Captain Jiat will give the strangers orders to hunt it. If we make a roast wing with that muscular guy’s wings and an oriental barbecue with its thighs, it will taste great.”

With Madame Lu’s words, Leeha understood.

The final hurdle to the Candle Castle beginner quest, the Golden Eagle Raid. In this case, there was some information from the community.

At level 10, the last hunting quest of Candle Castle given by the Guard Captain.

It’s a content that forces party play, it is said that the strength and difficulty is actually not easy.

In fact, it’s not an exaggeration to say that it’s the final quest for beginners.

‘But these lunch boxes weren’t mentioned? No, of course! Because this is a linked quest given by the restaurant.

People who simply followed the quest side of the Guard Captain would not know.

“But the reward, it is a lunch box again?”


“Hmm, don’t you see what a great lunch box it is.”

“Oh, I know. I know. Haha, it was a joke.”

“Yes? You know, candle Castle is a remote village, right? This time we are going to open a second store in the capital, and to do that, we need the meat of the golden eagle. That’s why I’m asking you.”

“But what’s the “Truth”?”

“Ah, if you want to do a ‘big thing’ in the capital, oheungheung, you know. You should have something to give.”

Only then did he realize what the “Truth” meant.

Truth(To go up). It means giving it as a tribute to someone.

‘Did she have an agreement with an official? First of all, it’s not bad to have a friendly NPC in the capital. But what’s that got to do with opening a restaurant branch?’

Leeha put an end to his worries.

“I’ll do it.”

The Golden Eagle Raid should be done anyway, but it would be nice if there was something connected like this.

“Oheungheung, okay. I’ll make the lunch box right away, so wait.”

Leaning at the restaurant counter for about 30 minutes, Leeha was surprised to see the lunch box brought by Madame Lu.

“What do you think? It’s not a normal lunch box, right?” “Wow.”

『Excellent special lunch box (Black Angus)』

Description: A special lunch box made by Madame Lu of the Holy Grill. When eating together, you wouldn’t notice even if three people died. The meat of the rabbit is unlike any other rabbit, the Black Angus will make you stronger.

Non-Tradable.

Effect: Agility +1, constitution +2. Permanent.

Permanent increase?

It’s not a temporary buff.


‘What kind of beginner village does this come out in? Besides, what does it mean to be excellent?’

The grade of the item, Leeha knew this as well. Leeha’s gun, the ‘lower crude muskets’, the term ‘lower grade’, Kijung said that was the worst grade.

Low-class, ordinary, excellent, extraordinary, rare.

Items that have been revealed so far are up to the 5th tier, and “excellent” means that it is a third-tier item.

‘Although the figures seem to be small, the permanent increase is huge.

Eating a lunch box and increasing your stats permanently? The word ‘Non-Tradable’ after the description of the item was very disappointing.

The ring that boosts your constitution by 7 costs 5.5 million won.

Probably it is estimated to be at least special grade, and equipment items may have limitations on use, but, you just have to eat the lunch box and your stats will increase, 1 on agility and 2 on constitution.

‘The cheapest it could sell would be 3 million won!’

It’s equivalent to at least 30 gold.

I almost died, so many f**king times, in order to earn one silver. But I got an item that could earn dozens of gold in one shot.

But, it was non-tradable!

“Not bad, right? Oheungheung.”

“What do you mean not bad, madam? It’s the best!”

I almost acted condescending there because my intimacy had increased.

He rubbed his hands neatly. It’s all thanks to Madam, hehe.

The bread sprinkled with buwak herbs wasn’t that much.

Somehow, unlike other stores, it was suspicious that only this restaurant had its own name.

‘It was a hint that if something is different, it is different. I shouldn’t miss this.’

“Then the golden eagle is-”

“I’ll get it! ASAP!”

“Ohohong, please. Oh, our Kiyomi complimented you for bringing the quality of the rabbit meat he’s been looking for. He told me that he wants you to be his disciple.”

“Kiyo- Ah. Yes. That giant chef… … . Please tell him I said thank you.”

As a disciple? I’m just glad that he doesn’t want to use me as material.

Leeha left the Holy Grill.

“Now then, shall we look at it? Character window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 8 (0%)

Title: Familiarity / Achievement: 6 HP: 250 / MP: 100 Stat: Strength 26(+16)

Agility 61(+31)

Intelligence 16(+6)

Constitution 14(+4)

Mind 11(+1)

Already level 8.

If I level up twice, I can receive the Golden Eagle Raid Quest from Guard Captain Jiat.

‘It’s like hitting two birds with one stone. I can get out of the beginner town with this. Do I have to get anything else?’

Leha looked down at his shoes.

‘In Level 5, I should have done that quest… … . Even now, Leeha sat on a bench in the square and opened the lunch box. The smell of barbecue spread quickly.

I experienced the taste when I was drinking butterbeer, but how about meat?’

“What is this smell?”

“Great. I’m hungry.”

“Ah, I want to eat meat. Do you have money?”

“I used it all to buy arrows.”

Two female users sniffed their noses and found the source of the smell. Leeha made eye contact with them, but ignored them and put a piece of meat in his mouth.

‘Wow, what is this meat’s elasticity?’ This munchiness and chewiness was amazing. The grilling skills that made use of the light taste of the meat itself.

“Oohh!”

As soon as I ate, my body started to get hot.

『Agility has risen by 1.』

『Your constitution has increased by 2.』

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 8 (0%)

Title: Like to know about weakness / Achievement: 6 HP: 290 / MP: 100 Stat: Strength 26(+16)

Agility 62(+32)

Intelligence 16(+6)

Constitution16(+6)

Mind 11(+1)

Black Angus’ thigh muscles run through the lower body and peripheral nerves! I thought it wasn’t a “Holy Grill” grill for nothing.

My HP is already 290. Agility is also +32.

“Okay, I will hunt as it is-! I have to go…”

Leeha’s expression, which quickly stood up while snorting, hardened rapidly.

To hunt?

I have to buy gunpowder and bullets.

“Hi.”

“… … Yes, welcome.”

As soon as I came in, I felt a bit upset.

The owner of the general store was lying on the sofa, looking at Leeha without even standing up.

Damn it, aren’t you even dealing with a guest properly.

All of the merchant NPCs and intimacy have increased, but why is this general store owner still like this?

“Hmm, hmm. I came to buy some gunpowder.”

“Because of the change of clothes, I think you’ll buy eight this time?”

Ugh, Ugh.

Oh, this merchant, he’s not ordinary. With just one word, he shook my heart like this! The owner of the half bald man was smiling while looking down in his half-lying position.

Leeha opened his bag and checked.

He has 3 silver and 1 copper, and he has 14 sets of gunpowder and ammunition. Wouldn’t it be necessary to buy bullets with all the money he has to raise the level by two more?

23 gunpowder, 2 silver 30 copper, 23 iron ball bullets, 69 copper. That is, if he buys 23 sets, he will use 2 silver 99 copper.

‘Once again 2 copper remains.’

I’ll live like a beggar again.

“Hey, the gunpowder is still 10 copper… … Right?”

“I don’t recall changing the prices recently. Why are you asking something so obvious?”

Is it so difficult to give this answer’,yes, that’s right.’ Or will his attitude change as my reputation goes up or level goes up? I’m curious about this.

Anyway, there are currently no Musketeers in this novice town.

In other words, if Leeha did not buy, it’s a bad stock that won’t be sold until the explosives and bullets are rotted.

‘I really don’t want to buy it……

I’m just sad that I can’t do that again..

No, can I raise 2 levels even if I buy 37 sets with all my money?

‘If I think about it until then… …

While raising to level 10, I may not have to use all 37 sets. How much gunpowder and bullets can I with the japtems collected while reaching level 10.

I don’t know if they would buy it. In other words, even if I reach level 10 to receive the quest for the golden eagle, I must prepare for a situation where I have no money.

‘It’s getting really serious.’

(To be continued time…)
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He had no gunpowder, so what could he do when he’s in a situation where receiving quests did not earn money?

Leeha shook his head while imagining himself hitting the Golden Eagle with the butt of his musket.

But he can’t, he needed to buy and use it sparingly.

“First, I want to buy gunpowder and bullets,23 each.”

“Sniff, sniff.”

“Why are you doing that?”

“What is that? What is that smell?”

The bald general store owner who was leaning on the counter approached Leeha.

“That, that, I know that smell. You, where are you from?”

“What? I came from the restaurant. Oh, is it the smell of meat?”

Leeha smelled himself but did not find anything strange at all. In embarrassment, he tried to step back, but the general store owner suddenly caught him.

“Why are you doing this?”

“No, that is not the smell of meat. It’s something more.”

“No, so, let’s talk about this first, these clothes are new. There should be a strange smell-”

“No, it’s not a bad smell. Hmm, hmm. It’s a delicious smell.”

It doesn’t smell like meat, but, what does it smell?

The grocery store owner’s eyes seem to have turned. Leeha felt an eerie feeling, he couldn’t help but be nervous because the general store owner was drooling like a sick person.

Then he remembered.

“Ah! Let me go.”


What did Annie say? Leeha opened the bag and took out what was inside.

“Is it this smell?”

“Oh oh! That’s it!’

That’s it! That! Where did you get it? What kind of bread smells like that?”

Bread with buwak herbs.

It is not simply sprinkled on top, but a deep aroma of bread that has been added from the dough and baked in the oven.

There was an explanation that the scent was good or that it was delicious, but it is only equivalent to one meal. It didn’t have a special effect like Madame Lu’s lunch box, so Leeha tried to save it for later when he got hungry.

‘I think this is what it means for a person who likes bread to flip over.’

Come to think of it, the grocery store owner was constantly eating bread even when we first met, right?

Leeha finally understood Annie’s words.

‘If I understand it, I have to use it.’

“It’s a very special bread. I don’t know if you know what buwak herb is, but you can’t get it even if you go to the bakery right now. I saved it for you! Because I got it.”

“Buwak herbs, ah, yes. I’ve heard of it. It’s not even for sale. How about- no, that’s okay. Ho, can’t you just give me a little?”

‘Is this what it looks like when someone flips over?’

“It’s so precious, I can’t give you some. I only have this to eat.”

“Then sell it! What if you sell it? Yes? I’ll give you 50 copper.”

“What the. What can you do with 50 copper? You said you couldn’t get buwak herbs. You have to pay at least 5 silver.”

500 copper per bread, the expression of the half-bald owner turned sharp.

“No way! Why don’t you just rob me blind? I won’t buy it, I won’t eat it.”

The general store owner turned his head.


“Ah, is that so? Then I can’t help it. Please give me some gunpowder.”

Leeha again wrapped the bread in a wrapper and put it in his bag, and sighed a little.

“A bargaining trigger.”

『The bargaining skill has been activated.』

『The probability of the opponent being persuaded increases by 21%.』

“Please give me gunpowder as soon as possible.”

“Ah, gunpowder.”

The half-bald owner kept glancing at Leeha’s direction while he was organizing things under the table. Because of that, his hands continued to sway.

“That, now, you. How about this?”

“What?”

“5 silver is a bit expensive. Affordable. Make it. Oh, I want to buy it. I mean.”

The half-bald owner couldn’t control his drool while speaking. Wow, people, no, NPCs can also change like this. Leeha was amazed to see that this shameless business owner couldn’t hide his heart for a single piece of bread.

If he hadn’t learned much from the bakery owner, Leeha might have missed the opportunity.

But not right now, he swallowed it whole and Leeha strengthened his resolve.

“You like bread so much! What nonsense are you talking about? If the boss likes bread, you know what I need, don’t you? Please pack gunpowder and bullets as soon as possible.”

As Leeha walked in front of the sloppy counter, the owner’s pupils shook.

“Oh, I know.”

I didn’t know what the owner meant, but he suddenly rubbed his hands.

After all, Leeha realized that it was easy to deal with people, NPCs, or whatever.

‘Now, what would you do? If I go out like this, the bread will be gone forever.’


Leeha deliberately put two silver coins on the counter and pulled the other out slowly.

“Give me 23 gunpowder and bullets. I’m kinda busy!”

“Well, here. Did you say your name is Ha Leeha? Hahaha! Well, again… Young travelers are in a hurry. How about stay h-here for a while and have a cup of tea. Heo Heo!”

“Boss, I really am busy, you know. People like us are always busy, even at this moment, there are a lot of work to be done.”

“Oh, yes. Yes. Oh my. I didn’t think of that. So how about this one? For money, haha. It is difficult to price those precious things. Changing to ammunition and gunpowder.

“Yeah? How many coppers do you want to exchange for this precious thing? Because it’s different from gunpowder and bullets!”

“Wow, no, no, you have to listen until the end when someone makes a suggestion! You should see it humanely.”

When Leeha struck his hand, the general store owner grabbed his wrist.

Leeha barely held back his laughter when he heard the word “humanely”. Since he is an NPC, he behaved as if he would not be able to say he was human.

“Whew, yes, what are you suggesting? I really don’t have time-”

“Okay! I mean. Ha Leeha, don’t you need a lot of gunpowder and bullets to go hunting? I will sell you gunpowder and bullets at half the price! What do you say?”

Leeha calculated quickly.

He could save 6 coppers every time he bought 1 gunpowder and 1 bullet.

He roughly calculated that to get the value of 5 silver, Leeha would need to buy 84 sets.

The problem is, he didn’t know how long he would stay here, and above all, when he reached level 10, he would have to leave this place.

In other words, at half the price, he might not be able to get the best benefit he could get.

What if he leaves the beginner village before even buying 84 sets? He wouldn’t really benefit from the 50% discount.

“Ah, what you are saying is ridiculous. I might leave Candle Castle soon anyway. What can I do with such a deal?”

“Ah, no, don’t-”

“Hah, if you really want to eat it. Boss. Would you rather do this?”

Leeha stepped up to the general store owner and said.

“There aren’t many people who buy gunpowder and bullets anyways and I wanted to sell the bread for 5 silver, but it is worth more than that. How about exchanging it for 100 gunpowder and 100 iron ball bullets?”

“That, that’s the selling price-”

“It’s a discounted price. It’s cheaper for the boss to take it, right?”

“No, even though.

“Now, think about it. Boss. How long have you been here? 10 years? 20 years?”

The Leeha used the system structure.

It’s been only 4 months since the game started, but the NPCs should have years of memories from their backstories.

“It’s been a decade.”

“Oh, I see. Have you seen this bread during that time?

“Eh? Oh no… that”

“No? Now, in extreme situations, if the boss dies in the future because of. heom heom. I’m sorry, but I’m afraid. Will you be to see this bread again by then?”

“No!’

The owner’s eyes widened as if in shock.

“No? And as I just said, I haven’t seen anyone buying gunpowder other than me. Are you going to let those rot? The gunpowder will not rot, but it will be very difficult to maintain.”

“Well, uh, yeah, so how…”

The boss’ eyes turned. In the midst of his anxiety, Leeha sighed and looked at him. The boss looked like he would weep any moment now.

It seems that he was shocked by the words that he might never try the bread again before his life is over.

“Okay, okay.”

The boss raised his head and looked at Leeha, eyes with expectation.

“Then can you change it to 70 pieces each?”

“Oh! Yes Is that really all right?”

“But.”

“But?”

“You need to introduce me to your supplier.”

“Hmm… …

The general store owner is also a merchant with high artificial intelligence.

There is no way he can’t calculate. Handing over gunpowder and ammunition that are not sold anyway to Leeha! Additionally, he will be leaving Candle Castle soon, so it won’t hurt to introduce him to the supplier.

Besides, isn’t it something that he was not able to sell in the first place?

In addition, not even a single copper is lost, so it will feel like he had earned 5 silver for some reason.

As for Leeha?

He will get the maximum amount of gunpowder and ammunition, and establish his own supply route through the supplier. Even though he couldn’t get money, the money he will get was meant to be spent on gunpowder anyway, so his purpose will be accomplished! It is much more profitable if you think about it in the long run.

The general store owner reached his hands out.

“Okay.”

“It’s a good deal.”

『Skill-Bargaining level has risen to 4.』

Tiring, looking at the notification window, Leeha smiled.

“Phew.”

Leeha removed the helmet for the virtual reality connector.

“Did you eat? Have you been playing all day?”

“Yes, I already ate. I took a short break in the middle. Don’t worry.”

He moved his body to the wheelchair, supported by his mother.

‘I took a break? Of course it is a lie. Rather than taking a break in the middle, I stayed connected all day until I felt a user call.’

It’s already dinner, if Leeha was like everyone else, he might have said that it’s only evening, but he felt like the time was faster in-game.

As soon as he disconnected from Middle Earth, he felt inconvenienced. He wanted to fix his two uncomfortable legs as soon as possible.

‘Kek, the last deal was a real jackpot.’

Leeha moved to the table by pushing his wheelchair. The well-prepared dinner on the table entered his eyes.

“Oh? You already prepared everything?”

“It seemed like my son was busy, so I called you after preparing everything.”

“It must have been hard as you just came from work, you should have called me.”

“No, no. Let’s eat quickly.”

Leeha who was feeling happy just before, immediately felt guilty-

“Why do you look like that in front of the food? Don’t worry, eat.”

Leeha’s mother, who knew him well, turned on the TV. He wanted to make his mom’s heart bright and cheerful even for a little.

“Haha, yes mom. Just a little more and I will be able to earn money, so please wait.”

“What are you talking about? Don’t push yourself too much and just stay healthy.”

“Oh, it’s delicious. After all, mom’s cooking is the best.”

There is no way that Leeha didn’t know how his mother felt. He didn’t feel good, but he smiled neatly and lifted his spoon.

『Hello, this is “Middle Earth Today”, I’m Reporter Han Kyunghee! What do we have today-』

Leeha heard something among the channels he was passing by.

“Oh, mom! Can you turn on that channel, that channel again.”

“Yes? O-okay.”

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 22

				
Chapter 22

On the old TV, a male announcer and a female reporter were talking in a loud voice. 『Yes! Today’s Middle Earth is also exci! ting! There are a lot of surprising news! And the first news, rankers’ change! It is said that there is a change in the top 10 in the world ranking, which has been solidified for a while.』

『Ah, a month after Middle Earth’s opening, the top ten has always been the same right?』

『So it’s even more amazing! The Russian user, who was ranked 4th before, replaced the previous 3rd ranker, who is Chinese.』

『If it is the previous 4th place, isn’t he ‘Agromni Igor’ who is the strongest amongst the Giant race? It is said that he broke the limits of the Berserker job and eventually rose to the third place in the world rankings, the Chinese users will be outraged!』

『Yes, that’s right. From the perspective of Pei Woo, the Number 1 in Martial Artist Class Ranking, he lost his face. It is said that war has already been declared against Agromni Igor’s guild from China’s giant guilds.』

『Chinese tactics! Interfere with competitors’ leveling while raising their level at the same time! It is a large-scale strategy that can be used because it is indeed China. We Korean users shouldn’t be swept away, I wonder how Middle Earth will flow due to the fight between users and guilds from these two countries in the future. What about the next news?』

‘Wow, they’re telling this on air.’ There is a sports section at the end of the 8 o’clock news and a news section specializing in Middle Earth. He has seen it while turning the channel a few times, but it’s the first time Leeha was so focused, because he started the game. It contained much more detail than he thought.

『There’s also news that Ram Hwajung, the Cryomancer, appeared in Candle Castle, one of the beginner villages. It is even said that the reason was to scout a Korean user, and a small commotion occurred!』

『Ah, wouldn’t it have been huge if Ram Hwajung, the Cryomancer, is scouting a user?』

『Yes, it is presumed to be having a meeting in the village of beginners with few experts on purpose, according to the informant. In addition to Ram Hwajung, there was also a person who was believed to be the eldest daughter of Hong Kong’s “Ram Long(Lin Long) Group”, Ram Hwayeon.』

『Ram Hwayeon. She’s the one who started playing directly to discover new business opportunities in the virtual reality Middle Earth, right? If he’s a Korean user that is getting scouted, he is definitely a ranker, but is there any information revealed?』

『Unfortunately, no. However, it seems that he was holding an elongated weapon that looked like a gun. That is the only information floating around. People are getting curious about this Korean user wrapped in veil-』

“Poo-eup. Kolok, Kolok.”

“Oh my goodness, what happened? Are you okay?”

Leeha’s mother patted his back for a while after he coughed. But Leeha did not feel the pat on his back properly.

‘Ram… … What? Ram Long?’

Ram Long, the largest conglomerate in Hong Kong, was a conglomerate group that has been reported on the news many times to launch a resort business for a large complex in Korea.

Who is the eldest daughter? That cheeky girl with red hair?

Flame Mage Ram Hwayeon!


‘That’s the reason why she’s so used to talking down on people! It must have been natural since she was a precious daughter. Leeha stopped coughing and listened to the TV again, but that portion of the broadcast was already over.’

“Aren’t you eating anymore?”

“I’m full. I really enjoyed the meal.”

Leeha pushed his wheelchair toward the computer. If that much is mentioned on TV, then what’s on the internet?

“Crazy. There was such an uproar?”

Ram Hwajung appeared at Candle Castle, the number of views on the post with a screen shot taken was 1.8 million. It’s been a few days in the game, but in fact, it only happened this morning. It is already very popular. It was taken from a distance, and since the main focus was Ram Hwajung, Leeha’s elbows and feet could barely be seen on the other side of the table.

The people in the screenshot are Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon, who were sitting at Candle Castle Pub, and Leeha was the person opposite them.

That’s great. They didn’t even take a closer look? The image quality was disappointing.

If you don’t know, ll_. This is also close

– crazy. Really sleepy. Is that a human or a doll

-It’s probably a doll. Did they change their appearance?

-That’s not it. Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung haven’t changed their appearance, didn’t you see them on the news? The real thing is prettier than that one.

Kkulgeok, 1.8 million views and 72,000 comments.

Leeha is only reading the recent comments, but since there are still a lot of comments coming in, he wasn’t able to read properly.

80% talk about the appearance of Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon.

19.9% of the comments are from Middle Earth experts and community users trying to guess his identity.

– He said he was Korean, would he be a ranker if he was getting scouted? I wonder who it is from the top 10 in Korea.

– Isn’t there a separate guild for Koreans? Why does the ranker suddenly want to go to the Hong Kong Kids’ Guild?

– Where can’t you go when money is the king? Don’t you know that foreign guilds pay more money and have better benefits. Is it for a meal?

– ㄴHA Is Middle Earth a company?


– Better than companies. They make a lot more money. Much more. And 0.1%,

– Who’s on the opposite side? Is that a ranker? The shoes are trash even with the poor quality of the photo.

– Didn’t he come here on purpose? Is he trying to hide his identity?

– You’re smart, that’s possible. Aren’t those the beginner’s shoes that you can’t even sell?

– Doesn’t that mean that he’s not really a low-level player? – That shit’s wild.

– He’s a Korean embarrassment. Meeting the Ram sisters wearing those clothes and shoes.

– That shit’s really crazy.

– Isn’t that a gun next to him? Musketeer? – Musketeer, is he sitting in front of them to beg? That job is only for beggars who couldn’t make money. lol

-There are some high-ranking users in other countries. After reading the embarrassing comments, Leeha only had one thought.

‘When I connect, I have to change my shoes first.’

He was ashamed to have gained fame with beginner items because he didn’t finish the level 5 quest that gives shoes yet. No one will recognize it anyway.

Leeha continued to ponder over his worries.

Was the invitation to join the guild a secret? Will the community be able to figure it out? Wouldn’t there be a way to grow faster with someone’s help?

‘Kijung must have a guild as well. What if I reveal my identity and meet with the people that are trusted and recommended by Kijung and play with them?’

It would be much better than going solo.

Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon, I didn’t know who they were and refused to join because I was uncertain.

“No, if I knew the identity of Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, would it have been okay to join their guild? I don’t know what scouting meant, but once I got help and we had to fall out later… … no. No.

The things seen in manhwa about assassins getting sent won’t happen, but I think that if you get the ire of Ram Hwayeon, your daily life can get tough.

Ram Long is the largest conglomerate and can be counted among the top three or four in Asia, the eldest daughter of the group’s chairman.’

“Kkeung, I can’t think of the best way to do it even if I work my head all night. If I reveal myself to the community without any evidence, I will only get cursed.


In fact, there were roughly over 300 texts that were pretending to be someone who received Ram Hwayeon’s scouting offer.

Of course, it is a situation where they only received swearing.

‘First I have to think big. I have to take a screenshot of the Add Friend window, and they won’t believe it if the author level is only 8.’

And what help can I ask for this community? Like Leeha’s impersonators(?), he’ll get or eat a lot of curses.

Leeha gathered information about the Ram Sisters, rankers and things he would need to do after level 10.

“Woo, 10 fox leathers.”

“You grew up very well while we couldn’t see it, Ha Leeha. I didn’t know it could be done so quickly.”

“You’re welcome.”

『Quest completed: Smart beasts』

『Friendship with all NPCs in Candle Castle increases by 10%.』

『Intimacy with the Candle Castle Police Force is increased by 15%.』

『Acquired 50 copper.』

『Acquired ordinary leather shoes.』

‘I did not level up?’

Looking at the window of the system, Leeha sat down. The quest to give the level 5 shoes is given by the Guard Captain Jiat.

Since the fox is a monster who made preemptive strikes, the users are asked to provide information.

As soon as he logged in, he received the quest to hunt 10 foxes and collect skins, and what was worse was the even after completing the quest, he did not level up.

“It’s bad to ask someone who had just finished working but I have to ask someone with the skills like Ha Leeha-kun.”

“Yeah? Oh, the wolf?”

The quest that the users get at level 8 is information that he already knew.

“Oh! How did you know, that’s right. The reason why they come to Candle Castle is actually because of the wolves. When the wolves disappear, the foxes will naturally climb the mountain.”

『Flock of beasts』

Description: The wolves descended from the mountain and the foxes moved around the village.

It is crowded. Let’s get rid of the wolves and restore peace around the village. They are those who live in a group, so you must be careful. Maybe you need the power of colleagues.

Content: Wolf Skin (0/10)

Reward: 10% intimacy for all NPCs in Candle Castle, 15% intimacy for Candle Castle Guard Captain, 1 Candle Castle Blacksmith Weapon Repair Ticket, 50 Copper

– Do you want to accept?

“You also have a ticket to repair weapons.”

“The wolves’ hides are tough, so once you finish your hunt, you will need maintenance.”

Leeha admired it a little.

It didn’t give a direct explanation, and it was increasingly felt that Middle Earth’s beginner system was designed precisely enough to just follow the flow.

‘Although it was not the case, it felt like I was rattled by the aftereffect of hitting a rabbit with the musket’s butt. The money is good.’

Would you like to accept? And Leeha clicked the Yes button next to it..m..m

“I’ll be back.”

“Please. Ha Leeha-kun.”

(To be continued…)
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“This is Foxes’ area.

”

Leeha was extremely familiar with this route. After exiting the south gate and heading to the area where the wolves appeared.

After passing the rabbit zone, users enter the fox zone.

Although they were preemptive attackers, they usually hid behind bushes and trees, so it was safe as long as users followed the road.

And a little further down the middle of the hill and above the bushes would be the wolves’ zone, where they terrorized the residents of Candle Castle.

“From here on, party play is encouraged.”

‘It was written in the description of the quest, and I also looked up information through the community. Although the starting condition of the quest is level 8, it is difficult for a level 8 user to complete it alone, and even if it is possible, it takes a lot of time. The biggest problem is that two or three wolves move together rather than moving alone. It won’t be easy to find a party and above all, I don’t want to do that. It would be great if there was a warrior who could stand as a tank, but the problem is, it takes two minutes to load one shot. In that time, even a warrior with a low attack power can handle it alone.’

When he finished reloading, the wolf would already be dead, and when the wolf died, it would alert the dealer who had done nothing.

‘In that case, it’s better to do it alone.’

That was what Leeha thought, he also judged that if he only targeted lone wolves, he would be able to save bullets and complete the quest quickly.

In addition, if he was in a far enough distance, there was a high chance that if he kills a wolf, its pack wouldn’t be able to find his position.

‘Still, I used 13 sets of gunpowder to catch 10 foxes. I will need to finish the quest with 11 shots, achieve level 10 and finish the Golden Eagle quest with the remaining bullets.’

While slowly walking through the bush while reviewing the plan he made, Leeha saw a party hunting wolves.

“Magic Missile!”

A murky white sphere was created in the air, then the sphere stretched and flew continuously, grinding at the wolf’s head.

Keng-! Gareureung!

One wolf got hit and the other two bared their teeth. The wolves wanted to bite the magician who threw the magic missile but he was already running away to teammates’ back line.


“I dragged three! Tanker, get ready!”

“Yep. Cast once I draw aggro! If you cast too early, it could get ugly, so be careful!”

Leeha watched the party closely. Information obtained from the Internet was different from what you see with your own eyes. Knowing what you need to be careful about, and what the wolves’ attack pattern was like in advance would be advantageous.

“Stomp!”

Kuung, Kuung, Kuung!

The warrior with a hammer-like weapon and a small shield stomped on the ground. The wolves changed direction at once when the skill activated, and Leeha was able to feel the minute vibrations on where he was standing.

“Please cast quickly!”

White lights gathered together, but this time it was for two people.

“Magic Missile!”

“Energy Bolt!”

Murky white and blueish white, once the casting was over, the two mages hit the wolf. One on the head and one on the side.

In the meantime, the tanker raised his shield to block the wolves’ paws and swung his hammer.

“Last hit!”

Is someone hiding between two mages?

A shadow popped out and quickly stuck a dagger on the wolf’s neck.

“There was one more. It’s a party of four.”

Leeha did not notice it before.

Splat- The wolf turned gray with blood gushing out. The mages had already started casting and threw their magic into the air.

“With coordination like that, if you have a four-man party, you can hunt quite steadily.”

‘They have no healer, so they need to take a break every hunt, but the hunt is pretty stable.’


Leeha gained confidence and looked around, although it was the most popular hunting ground near Candle Castle, there were only six parties scattered around. After moving to a place where no one was hunting, he settled down. Near a rock, he found a wolf raising its legs and peeing. It smiled with a leg raised up peeing near the rock.

‘I found one.’

“Woo, okay. There are no other guys around. I’m sorry for beating a peeing guy.”

Leeha spoke and acted quickly, he studied by watching videos related to muskets on the Internet.

What Leeha needed the most at the moment was the information that reduces the musket’s reload time.

‘The five stages of reloading, the paper bag wasn’t even opened by hand.’

Bite (물어), Pour (부어), blow (불어), tap (쳐), aim (조준). And Fire(발포).

Leeha followed the training scene of the British Red Court, the world’s strongest musket unit, and now it’s time to test its performance!

‘Reload start!’

Bite the paper with the gunpowder using your mouth.

Pour the gunpowder into the gunpowder plate and the remaining gunpowder into the muzzle and insert the iron ball bullet. Hueup! Blow is the same as the usual loading.

Tap, it was not about ramming the ramrod repeatedly, it was to hold the musket vertically and tap the musket’s butt on the ground lightly! With a simple impact, the gunpowder won’t explode.

‘I can save at least 25 seconds because I can get the ramrod, squeeze it into the muzzle, and press firmly in just one go.’

Aim at your target after lying down on your stomach on the ground and getting an angled posture.

“Huuu, haaaa.”

He controlled his breathing. Around 55m. The moment the wolf put down its leg after peeing, Leeha’s index finger moved.

Taaang–!

The smell of black powder exploded, and white smoke spewed out like cotton balls and beyond that was the gray corpse of the fallen wolf.

One shot, one kill.

“Good. First one complete.”


It wasn’t to the point that it can be called a weak, but it was caught in just one shot.

“In other words, I have to acknowledge the power of one attack. If you just get it right, it’s a big hit-Um?”

Rumble, rumble.

A wolf popped out in front of Leeha as he laughed and walking towards the wolf’s corpse.

‘Where? Was it hiding behind the rock where the other guy peed?’

“Damn it.”

Gulp, Leeha swallowed his saliva with some difficulty.

‘Where did it hide?! There were two from the start? Should I run away or should I try my luck and fight a life and death battle with the musket’s butt? I can’t.’

Leeha opened his bag quickly.

Bite, pour, blow, tap, aim.

It has fewer steps than before, but he hasn’t fully mastered it yet. It takes a little over 1 minute to reload and still takes a little longer than auto-load.

‘It’s huge compared to before where I needed 2 minutes to reload manually, but damn it, shit!’

After completing the reload in a staggered posture, the distance between Leeha and the wolf is about 30m. As Leeha quickly reloaded in a hurry, he suddenly realized something strange.

‘It’s not attacking?’

It should have attacked already. No, in the first place, wolves run and attack preemptively.

Leeha stood up and aimed the musket’s muzzle.

“Haa, haa.”

“Grrr.”

It threatened with a growl, and saliva flowed through its teeth.

Eyes above its crumpled nose were clearly pointed at Leeha, but the wolf didn’t attack.

It just walked slowly, changing direction from left to right.

‘Is there a case like this?’

When Leeha pointed his muzzle at it, it walked sideways as if to avoid the muzzle. When Leeha’s muzzle followed, it changed direction again.

‘This guy. It knows what a gun is. The wolf felt it instinctively when it saw its colleague die.’

He heard the story of a wolf who sensed the danger of a gun.

The wolf was originally a fairly smart hunter. Even if you just stick a long stick like a gun, they’re sensitive enough to hide their body.

In terms of learning ability, it might be the smartest among beasts.

It also saw while Leeha was reloading hurriedly. What if it even found out that it takes time between firing?

‘If I miss, it’s over.’

Leeha, pointing his muzzle to the wolf, slowly stepped back.

‘Think about it as a big dog. It’s just that the puppies that I had in the past have grown.’

Although it may be a bit too much to compare a wolf with a maltese, it was judged that the habits of dogs and wolves were similar.

If you made eye contact with a canine beast, you should never show your back.

“Hoo, hoo.”

The wolf slowly stepped back and looked at Leeha.

It didn’t seem to be timing or looking for a gap. It revealed its teeth to threaten.

If he walked all the way back like this, the wolf’s aggro will be released, but then, he won’t be able to take the loot.

At last, the moment of choice came to Leeha, who extended the distance between them to 55m.

‘That bastard keeps moving left and right. If I can’t hit it.’

Unconditional death. What can he do with bayonet charge?

But if he ran away? The item of the wolf he just caught will be discarded.

“If anyone sees me, they would think I look like someone who is trying to catch a boss.”

Leeha tried to relax by complimenting himself.

‘Yes, what am I thinking about now!’

Baaang!

At that moment, he felt sweat running down his neck.

Keong!

The wolf stopped for a moment and realized that there was nothing wrong with its body. So what’s left?

It just ran to tear the human apart.

Grrrrr, grrrrr!

Tat-hat, tat-hat, and the wolf started running towards Leeha. It didn’t know what that stick was, but it knew that it took time to prepare and fire again.

That’s it, that’s it! Kyaak!

45m, 38m, the running wolf stared at the human standing far away.

Did he give up?

Humans couldn’t even respond properly when they ran into it. No, maybe there is something they believe in. Humans have a lot of skills, but do they have different teeth or claws?

Kyareung, Kyaah-!

Then it turned out that the human’s expression was also different.

It looked like he was standing still without any movement, but it was not the face of a person who gave up.

There was a clear sound.

It was the same loud sound as when its husband died earlier. The same bad smell, the disgusting, ominous smell that it didn’t want to approach came out as if it’s paralyzing its nose.

Smoke?

“I’m sorry to trick you, wolfy.”

Leeha pulled his index finger calmly toward the running wolf.

Baaang–!

White smoke spewed out and the wolf fell down and rolled on the ground.

It was hit on its side.

Red blood soaked the wolf’s white fur.

After being aimed at its head, the running wolf instinctively slowed down and twisted its body. Had it been a little further, it might have missed.

『Skill – Musket Mastery level has risen to 2.』

“Phew.”

The musket had a high attack power, so he was able to hunt it. If it was a weapon such as a bow or crossbow, Leeha would not have been able to catch it with such an inaccurate shot. Leeha stared at the corpses of the two wolves that have turned gray.

He was lucky. It was realistic, so he tried to gamble.

“So it’s true that you can make a gunshot sound with your mouth.”

That bang! It was curious and pleasant that the wolf responded to the cry and jumped in.

‘Because they’re so smart, it’s so real.’

Leeha did not walk toward the wolf’s body.

He took out a gunpowder bag and looked around first. Maybe there was another one hiding.

It was enough to catch rabbits and foxes and then loot them, but now that he knew the characteristics of party-type monsters, he needed to be more careful now.

“Okay. There’s none.”

Only then did Leeha walk carefully and finish picking up the loot.

Two quest items, wolf skins and the wolves also dropped meat and claws.

‘I have to bring the meat to Madame Lu. But the Musket Mastery only reached Level 2 now? While the bargaining is already Level 4. Is my job a musketeer or a merchant?’

Someone approached Leeha while he was happily putting the loot into his bag.

“Wow! Nim, how did you just do that?”

“Yeah?”

The Leeha, who turned his head, stopped and froze.

It was a lizard that spoke and behind the lizard a giant stood, while a crow sat above the giant’s head.

“Aaaaahhhhhhhhhhhh!!!”

His body reacted before he could think. Leeha began loading by biting a bag of gunpowder.

“W-wait a minute! We are users!”

The fluttering tail caught Leeha’s eyes. It’s not waving like a puppy’s tail.

The lizard tail moved while sweeping the floor. Saak, saak

That huge size, that scary look is a user? Leeha couldn’t believe it, but stopped.

“Uh, user. Ah… …”

Lizardia.

This is the first time I saw one. Leeha scanned the Lizardia user, with eyes that were about to pop out. The private parts are covered with something similar to a piece of clothing. How far did they make it realistic? Leeha barely held back the desire to lift the cloth.

Oh, you can look at mine.

(To be continued…)
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“Sorry. I thought you were a monster.”

“It’s okay. I get that a lot, so I’m used to it now. The users are surprised to see me, but NPCs are not. Kikiki.”

The Lizardman revealed its teeth and laughed.

Ah, so they implemented the lizard’s laugh like that? Great, goofle.

Despite the Lizardman’s laugh, Leeha just kept staring at it.

“Ah! On the other hand. Looks like you’re hunting alone. Is that right?”

“Yeah. Well.”

“Wow, how did you do it? You were able to hunt two wolves by yourself.”

‘My rapidly beating heart quickly went cold. Why is he asking me that? Did they see something suspicious while I was hunting?’

“I’m just asking. The two of us are hunting, but it’s really hard. You look like a person of similar level, so we want to invite you to our party. Kikiki.”

At least there seemed to be no malice.

It was difficult to tell if the Lizardman is good or evil by looking at his face, but Leeha could feel his sincerity by his relatively polite attitude.

“A party?”

“Yeah! Although we are both level 9, we have difficulty hunting because 4 wolves are too much for us. It seems you also have a strong attack power, but considering the loading time, it seems that you can’t handle more than 3 by yourself. There are a lot of 3 or more party mobs in this area, so wouldn’t it be difficult for you?

‘Huh, would you look at this? Is it polite of him to pretend he didn’t know anything about it? The Lizardman provided a fairly sharp analysis.’

“I’m level 8. Would you still like to party?”

“What, you’re lower leveled than us? Kiki, it’s okay because your attack power is high. Giant-nim here will Tank and Heal, I will pull the mobs and deal DOT magic, if you can deal with them one by one, I think we should be able to do it. What do you think?”

The initiative lies with Leeha, and he judged that he won’t lose anything if he joined their party. Without a doubt, hunting the two wolves previously was cutting it close.

Even if he shot from a distance of at least l00m, it is certainly impossible to hunt three. No, even hunting two is difficult.


A while ago, it only worked because he was able to use a little trick.

Leeha judged the situation calmly.

In addition, the Lizardman has already analyzed what each of them will play in the party. He liked this attitude.

“Good. Please take good care of me. I am Ha Leeha.”

“Oh! Ha-I Ha-I! That’s great name! Kiki, I’m Biyemi, my job is Venom Mage and I’m level 9.”

“Is it Venom Mage?”

“Venomancer. Are you familiar with it?”

Was there anything like that? It’s a job you might not know unless you’ve checked hundreds of weapons in the class tower.

“I am Kijung Gong Gong. As you can see, I’m from the giant race. I am also level 9.”

“Kijung Gong… That’s a unique nickname.”

Leeha looked at the giant talking shyly. Gong Gong? It’s a strange ID, why is it so familiar?

“What is your job?”

“Well, that…”

‘Is it embarrassing to speak of a job? A small voice that doesn’t fit the size. Kijung Gong Gong raised his head and looked at the sky. From above his head -! A crow hovered around and sat on his head. Oh? Crow, and the crow sat on his head? Ah! Giant? And crow! Nickname Kijung Gong Gong. A memory came to mind.’

“Druid! Right?”

“Kaek. You must be Korean.”

“Wow haha! You’re the one from the community! The Giant Druid! The person who was forced to choose it after a power outage!” Pu-eup, Leeha hurriedly covered his mouths instead of laughing.

From Leeha’s memory, it was a really sounded ridiculous to restore his job choice, and he was a user who shouted ‘I am bald’ while walking around the fountain square.

It must be said that it was so desperate and serious.

This is because people can’t make normal judgments when they’re in a pickle. But Gong-gong wasn’t angry or offended.


“You can laugh, I’m used to it now. Thanks to that, people often recognize me.”

He made a Self-deprecating smile and creeping voice.

‘Wouldn’t a person who resigned and accepted the situation be like that? So I thought he was rather pitiful.’

“Wow, wow? Are you both Koreans? I like K-pop too!”

“Where is Biyemi-nim from?”

“Vietnam.”

“Oh, oh oh.”

It suits you! The word rumbling in the uvula and passed over again.

A Vietnamese user that has lizard character and uses poison.

‘Something like a guerrilla came to mind, but wouldn’t that be racist?’ Leeha held back his words.

“I know what you’re thinking! You’re thinking of the Viet Cong in the old days, but since then, ho Chi Minh citizens are now proud owners of both high and low apartments! Kikiki. Let’s form a party quickly. Oh, what is Ha Leeha-nim’s job?”

“I am a Musketeer. Um, to put it differently, something like ‘shooter(射手)’ should do?”

Tak. The musket was held vertically with a sound.

Leeha was smiling, but the light flashed and disappeared from other people(and lizard)’s eyes. What were they thinking.

These three are people who are about to graduate from the beginner village.

Which means that they have a rough idea on what races and jobs are popular.

They looked at Leeha, who proudly raised his Musket, with neither respect nor envy.

It was a strange combination where each of them felt pity or strange for at each other.

Human Musketeer Ha Leeha, lizardman Venomancer Biyemi, Giant Druid Kijung Gong Gong.

The three people made a party.


“Good, good, kill!”

Kkak!

Leeha barely held back his laughter.

The Giant Druid Kijung Gong Gong, a giant male over 2.5m tall, is giving order to his summon, saying “Good, good!” in a cute way, so Leeha can’t concentrate.

“The DOT is on the left most one! Kiki, Poison Spit!”

The Lizardman Biyemi made a fairly short cast. Green light was drawn into the lizard’s body, and he spit it out.

“Feh!”

Poison Spit, technically speaking, it is not saliva, but poison.

In case of human venomancers they were fired from the magic wand, it was said that there are little differences between races.

‘That is, I shouldn’t laugh. I can not be distracted. Concentrate, concentrate.’

While Giant Kijung Gong Gong was shaking off the wolf that bit his forearm, Leeha aimed his muzzle at the wolf who was not poisoned.

Taaang, it died in one shot at the movement of his index finger.

Regardless of critical hits or instant deaths, Leeha’s attack power level has already been proven.

“Huuuut！”

He jumped and pressed the head of the wolf with his gloved hand. The head of the wolf got buried deep, however, it was still breathing.

Biyemi approached and stabbed it with a poisoned dagger.

Kiiing, Kiing.

The wolf died from the poison while it was being suppressed. After the death of the two wolves, Leeha pulled the trigger toward the one that remained.

『Skill – Musket Mastery level has risen to 3.』

『You leveled up.』

“Oh! Congratulations, Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Congratulations.”

“Huu, haha, thank you. Our hunting speed is pretty fast, is it not?”

Leeha was enjoying the white light that refreshed his body.

‘Finally level 9.’

It was very nice since his level has not risen by a single level from the beginning of the Fox Quest until now.

“Yes? It is possible because Ha Leeha’s attack power is tremendous. Musketeers are this strong? I heard that their accuracy and range were not good. Ah, of course, we also have Kijung Gong Gong-nim who is a good tank. Kikiki.”

Leeha guessed that the lizard is accustomed to recruiting party members.

Biyemi didn’t know that the Combat Assistance System made the Attack power and Accuracy tolerable, so Leeha took it as a compliment. Anyway, his skill at picking up people is quite good.

The Giant Kijung Gong Gong’s face turned red when he heard such a compliment, and I couldn’t find the rough appearance he had on the community.

Because there are many people who are different from what they write on the Internet.’

Unexpectedly, the hunting speed of the three people party is comparable to parties with 4 or 5 people in it.

Even though the loot distribution was shared evenly, Leeha was still able to gather 10 wolf’s skin.

“I have collected all the wolf skins I need, so I will come back after completing the quest.”

“Already? But it’s useless to complete it now. If you get your experience up to 87% of level 9 and complete the quest, you will reach level 10. You can get the Golden Eagle Quest right then. Biyemi stopped Leeha who was going to the village by presenting some pretty specific numbers.

“Yes? How do you know how much experience each quest gives?”

“How you ask? Kiki, it is information I got from the Internet.”

Leeha searched for information in the Internet as well but have you never seen such detailed information. In the first place, it does not indicate how much experience points are given for each quest in Middle Earth.

Well, how did he know that you can level up just by completing a few percentages of experience on a level?

“So don’t worry and hunt. At level 10, you can also take up the golden eagle.”

Biyemi raised his thumb up.

The lizard had five fingers and Leeha was surprised that the thumb was so long.

“Okay, this time I will pull four! Get ready!”

“Ah. Yeah.”

Giving Leeha no time to think, Biyemi started her casting.

And spat out saliva full of poison.

Four wolves, they were rather tricky opponent, but it did not pose any threat to Leeha’s party, who had already begun the hunt.

Although Kijung Gong Gong did not have a shield, the giant’s unique tough and hard skin and high stamina, he was able to press down the wolves’ head.

Biyemi spat out poison at the wolves and slowly reduced their health, and when they are already dying, he finishes them off with a poisoned dagger.

The wolf that tried to find a gap was suppressed by Kijung Gong and got pierced in the body by Leeha’s iron ball.

“Haha, good. Good. It’s the first time I’ve ever enjoyed hunting.”

“You want to get pecked?”

“Oh no. I like it.”

“I’m just kidding.”

Leeha had a strange intimacy enough to play with Kijung Gong Gong. They both understand the pain of having a job forced upon them.

Seeing the giant Druid, who was enjoying being in the party three, he thought he knew how hard it must have been to hunt.

There are also days after the butt was stained with blood to catch a rabbit. Those days that he was neglected as a musketeer.

“But Biyemi is amazing. How do you walk and cast?”

“Kiki, I just did it and it worked. Venom Mage casting time is so short.”

Biyemi laughed softly at Kijung Gong Gong’s question. What are they talking about? Leeha did not know.

“Is it great to cast while walking?”

“I heard from a friend, but it’s not a joke to focus when casting. They asked me if I could move a cup full of water.”

“Oh, that analogy is easy to understand.”

‘If you don’t pay much attention, it will overflow with just one step. Come to think of it, all the mages of the other parties I saw were the same. They cast magic, stop and move, then cast again. It is called a “moving cast.” but I haven’t seen anyone who is actually moving and casting. Oh, that Ram Hwajung did cast while walking, right? She was a great kid. Should I say that it is as expected from the 9th in the world ranking?’

While trying to check whether the Ram Sisters were connected or not, Leeha suddenly had a different thought.

‘No, wait. Is this lizard doing what the 9th place is doing?’

Leeha looked at Biyemi, he had hard time looking at the lizard’s vertical eyes for a long time so, he quickly turned his head.

‘Is it possible because the casting time is short as he said?’

The casting time was shorter than what I saw from other people. In that amount of time, you may be able to barely walk while maintaining concentration for one or two steps.

(To be continued…)
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“What percentage is Kijung Gong Gong right now?”

“I’m at… 69%.”

“Anyway, the quest for the golden eagle is level 10 but to actually hunt it, users must be level 12 to 13 so let’s go and level up. Ha Leeha-nim needs to fill his experience bar until 87% at level 9. Is that okay?”

“Ah yes, it is okay.”

Biyemi tapped the bleeding Kijung Gong Gong’s shoulder who was sitting down.

‘Right, 3 or 4 people go at level 13, if 5 people went, it was possible at level 12.’

Leeha recalled the information he gathered.

‘But didn’t he say that the 3 of us can go when I hit level 10?’ When he fills up his experience bar to 87% at level 9, there should still be a 1 level difference.

But what if Leeha fills his experience bar to 87% at level 9 and returns to the village to complete the quest? He will be level 10. What about Kijung Gong Gong and Biyemi? Will they be at level 10 with 50% experience bar? In the end, there will only be three level 10 users.

But he said it clearly before, that after reaching level 10, all three of them can to the quest. Leeha recalled, the recommended level for a 4 person party is 12, is it possible to do it with a 3 person party at level 10?

‘He could just be saying it in order for the three of us to continue hunting together, until we are able to complete the quest.’

After all, people may have prejudices based on their appearance. If Biyemi was not a Lizardfolk but a human, Leeha would have been suspicious of him. Leeha smiled and took out a bag of gunpowder.

“Okay, let’s do it again!”

“Okay, I’m pulling three!”

Biyemi ran out.

For a number of reasons, Leeha, Biyemi, and Kijung Gong Gong became celebrities.

“Wow, what kind of party is that?”

“Is the Giant a healer or a tank? He’s a one man show.”

“I’ve never seen a Lizardfolk user before, I’m seeing one for the first time. What is he doing? Is he spitting? Is spitting his basic attack?”

“Great. Musketeers have to shoot up close like that. It’s a really crazy job. I think the attack range is shorter than the Lancer.”


First is their appearance, their race and job composition were not common, and the noise they created, made the passing users turn their heads.

Peck it a big chunk! The giant kept shouting the same thing again and again, and the lizard is running around while spitting.

The only human that looked normal is holding a gun and going all the way to the wolf’s nose to shoot it.

Can you even call it a gun?

“But they’re really fast.”

“I mean, how are they doing that?”

“Should I be a Musketeer too? Their combination is great.”

And second is their hunting speed, that was even more surprising to the surrounding users. Wolves don’t run and die, only when they can’t do a proper attack will they die.

In the eyes of other parties made up of the jobs such as mages and warriors, it was absurd.

There’s no shield, no good swords, and no magic, can something like that can be called a proper party.

It was only natural that they have no way of knowing that Leeha believed in Kijung Gong Gong’s tanking and that he is sticking to him in order to increase his accuracy and damage. And since he could pay less attention to survival, the speed of his reload was getting faster as he naturally familiarized with the loading movement.

Taaang–!

The last white smoke spewed out.

The wolf, struggling with his head gripped by Kijung Gong Gong, fell weakly.

“Phew……. The experience is not really increasing.”

“But it’s still before level 10, so it’s okay. Kiki. How’s your experience bar?”

“It reached 88% after hunting the last wolf.”

Leeha wiped his sweat and checked his character window.

Because it was a party hunt, they shared experience points, but they hunted a lot in a short amount of time. However, to get to 88%, all gunpowder and bullets were used up.

“You said you’ve used up all gunpowder, right?”


“Yes, I have to go to the village anyway.”

“It was breathtaking. Let’s go get you to level 10 and reorganize. Kiki.”

It was almost like camping.

‘How much bread from Annie’s Bakery did I eat while grinding? It seems that the sun has risen and set twice in Middle Earth. But in that time, I can’t believe that I’ve only filled my experience bar to 88%.’

Leeha stuck his tongue out. Middle Earth’s time is longer than the actual time, so the mental fatigue is great. It was understandable that during the 4 months of opening, the highest level was bound to be 200.

‘It’s hard to focus on leveling unless you’re really risking your life to play the game.’

Of course, Leeha enjoyed this because he was doing it at the risk of his own life. It was a waste of time to go to buy gunpowder.

Leeha’s experience bar is 88% at level 9, byemi is 42% at level 10, and Kijung Gong Gong is 28% also at level 10.

Jiat, the Guard Captain of Candle Castle, looked at the group with a round eye. Of course, he did not make a fuss like Leeha did when he first saw Biyemi.

“Ha, is this Leeha-kun’s party?”

“Yes, Guard Captain Jiat. I have collected all 10 wolf’s skin.”

“From Giants to Lizardfolk! The class is also a druid and a venom mage. That’s a great combination. Wouldn’t all wolves be scared and run away? Haha, thank you!”

NPC is NPC. Leeha was envious at the ability to see users’ job just by looking. I took the wolf skin from the bag and pushed it out.

『You have completed the quest: Beast Pack』

『Friendship with all NPCs in Candle Castle increases by 10%.』

『Intimacy with the Candle Castle Guards increased by 15%.』

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with the Candle Castle Guards.』

Ppapam-! 〈Achievement: Candle Castle Honorary Guard (E+)〉

Congratulations! You have killed Black Angus, the hidden boss threatening Candle Castle. You who worked hard to protect the village on behalf of the guards! In the name of Castle Road, we appoint you as an honorary guard.

Reward: Strength +2, agility +2, intelligence +2


『Continental reputation increased by 30.』

『Fibiel Kingdom national contribution is increased by 100.』

『Acquired 50 copper.』

『You have acquired 1 Candle Castle Forge Weapon Repair ticket.』 『You leveled up.』

“Uh? Huh?”

Leeha stared at the notification window that appeared. Red light appeared followed by white light that is the visual effect produced by a level up.

Like a hero, the red and white light wrapped around Leeha’s body and pop! The light scattered. The surrounding users looked at Leeha as if it was the first time they had seen the red light.

“Wow! What was that red light?”

“That was the first time I saw it. Huh, what is that? Did you level up?”

“Wow, the effect is good. Oh, I’m taking a screen shot!”

“Amazing! Compared to the level-up effect, it was really splendid.”

“Wait. I don’t know what it is. Please let me pass. Biyemi, Kijung Gong Gong, come here quickly!”

“L-Let’s go together, Leeha-nim!” Biyemi laughed while looking at the crowd of users and the bewildered Kijung Gong Gong followed Leeha. The users who gathered near Guard Captain followed them in order to get any information, but they were unable to.

“Hah, it’s a beginner village, so if there’s something going on, it will get a lot of attention.”

“Kiki, there’s nothing we can do. It’s the first time they’ve seen someone gaining reputation. But what did you do to achieve 100% intimacy at Candle Castle?”

“Well? How?”

“Huh? The red color is the visual effect for fame! It will come out when you search the Internet!”

Biyemi shook his hand in a hurry.

‘It will come out when you search the internet? Of course, it can be said that red light is the visual effect of increasing reputation. However, the fact that the reputation increases after reaching 100% intimacy in Candle Castle?

No, before that, how did he know that my intimacy in Candle Castle reached 100%?’

“It was great, Ha Leeha-nim. But, isn’t it only 60% after finishing all the quests? How did you fill it to 100%?”

Kijung Gong Gong asked carefully. In Middle Earth, information is life, and asking for the information itself is not polite.

“I’m not sure exactly. Hahat.”

‘No, I knew exactly what happened. Yes, it is exactly as it appears in the achievement description. I caught the Black Angus, which wasn’t usually caught by users. I had also completed all the quests related to Black Angus. That, too, is not the usual case for users. I aimed for a high-risk high return quests by using the “bargaining” skill in four places: the bakery, tailor shop, the weapon shop, and the accessory shop.

‘Because the failure penalty was huge, the NPC’s intimacy increased by 15% as a reward for success. I had to qualify for the Black Angus and at the same time had the bargaining skill. Except for the Holy Grill, there are no other quests or special rewards, and I wondered how intimacy would be used in all this. It might have something to do with reputation and national contribution!’

“I completed another quest for catching rabbits at level 5, that’s probably why.”

Leeha gave a slight hint and laughed, and Kijung Gong Gong nodded energetically.

“Oh. There is such a thing. Leeha is smart. I didn’t think other NPCs were giving quests”

Clink.

“Ara. Biyemi-nim, why did you.”

Biyemi dropped his dagger at Kijung Gong Gong’s words.

Hat, Biyemi quickly got up and picked up a dagger quickly, but Leeha saw.

That short gap. The reptile’s eyes were looking at him with an disbelieving expression.

“Kiki, nothing. Then, shall we meet again in front of the south gate after repairing our gears? Ha Leeha-nim must also receive the quest.”

“Yes. I have to pack a lunch box and feed my crow too.”

“Yes. Let’s meet at the south gate after getting the quest and repairing our gears. If there’s anything, tell me through party chat.”

“Kiki, yes, yes. See you later.”

Biyemi moved first with a cheerful expression.

“Then, I will be back. See you later.”

“Yes, see you later.”

Leeha said goodbye to Kijung Gong Gong and headed to the general store.

‘How much will this be sold? I need to buy gunpowder and bullets again, damn it, then I should buy from wholesaler next time.’

There is no time now, so first of all, I have to meet up with the party members and hunt the golden eagle. I wanted to try the method I found while hunting wolves.

‘If I use that method well, the golden eagle will soon be dead. I’m the one who caught the Hidden Boss, black Angus. Heuheu. I have to go learn to kill after power leveling.’

After Leeha left with smile on his face, yellow eyes flashed in the dark alley.

“He got Black Angus at Level 5.”

Charrp, a long tongue fluttered.

‘Now it’s pretty much a sitting duck. Kilkil.”

Leeha carefully closed the bag before heading towards the Guard Captain Jiat. When Leeha went to the General Store, the owner said that he knew the date the wholesaler would come, so he will introduce Leeha to the wholesaler at that time.

The wolves’ japtem was also more expensive than expected, and later purchased gunpowder and ammunition at a bargain price by exchanging for delicious Buwak bread.

Nevertheless, it was with extreme sadness that he was only able to buy 40 sets.

‘Because it is expensive, it is dirty and expensive. No, that’s enough. If I use that method, I can end the golden eagle hunt with 40 shots.’

Leeha was confident.

“Oh, Ha Leeha-kun! Can I ask for one last request?”

And where Leeha’s steps stopped, the Guard Captain Jiat commissioned the final quest for a beginner village.

“Is it a golden eagle?”

“Honorary Guards are different! I’m asking you to eliminate the king who drove the wolves from the mountain!

Guard Captain Jiat, smiled wide and patted Leeha’s shoulders. Then, the last quest of Candle Castle appeared in front of Leeha.

“After this job is done well, let me introduce you to a place where you can receive proper training.”

『Master of the Candle Mountain』

Explanation: The reason the wolves descended from the mountain was because of the golden eagle nesting in the candle mountain! The main culprit, the group of golden eagles and their king, must be killed. The chief of security has repeatedly said that neglect and arrogance are absolutely forbidden.

Content: Golden Eagle’s Wings (0 / 1)

Reward: Candle Castle Guard Intimacy Increased by 15%, Brown Bess Academy Letter of Introduction, 90 Copper

『You can no longer increase intimacy with Candle Castle Guards.』 『Reward will be changed.』

Reward: Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution Increase by 30, Brown Bess Musket Academy Letter of Introduction, 90 Copper

-Do you want to accept?

Without worrying about anything, Leeha clicked yes.

The Giant and Lizardman were waiting for Leeha in front of the south gate in the distance.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Come quickly!”

“Kiki, if you don’t come, we will leave you!”

“Wait, I’m coming right now!” Leeha tightened his musket strap.

(To be continue…)
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“Did you buy a lot of gunpowder?”

“No, it’s so expensive, I only bought 40 sets.”

“Can’t Musketeer fight without gunpowder?”

“Well, that, I can use the musket’s butt but, it will be difficult.”

Giant Kijung Gong Gong nodded. Whenever his big head moved, the crow sitting on it flapped its wings.

Leeha is more sympathetic towards the Giant Druid than himself, he has no way of dealing damage aside from the crow’s beak and punching directly.

It was to the extent that he raised his level to 10 without having any weapon.

“But doesn’t Kijung Gong Gong-nim get hurt? I think it’s the wolves’ bite is pretty painful.”

“At first, it was tingling, but after I lowered the assimilation rate, it got better. It felt like getting bitten by puppies with their gums.”

He laughed, scratching his forearm.

“Instead, I donn’t properly feel the sensation when I make simple movements.”

“Hoh, there is a way to do that. There are advantages and disadvantages.”

Leeha looked at his assimilation rate in the setting window. The default value is 20%.

While Middle Earth can realize up to 100% of the senses, the default setting is 20% and the maximum limit of 50%.

The fact that the senses can be realized up to 100% means that the sense of pain also becomes 100%. The legal limit has been established since the deaths occurred in the past virtual reality games.

If you don’t like pain, you have to lower the assimilation rate, naturally the sense of touch also becomes dull. It is natural that in order to get one, you have to abandon one.

“Kiki, of course. It is said that there are quite a few people that raise their assimilation rate to the limit when they fight. They want to feel the wind, the drop of their sweat, and even feel the grassed being stepped on by their shoes. There are cases where such trivial things can determine the winner and loser of a battle, so it makes sense. Some users even wrote a memorandum on Goople and raised their assimilation rate to 80%.”

Leeha also agreed with Biyemi’s words, he briefly recalled various textbooks when he was in the sniper platoon. A lot of knowledge that is still unforgettable. For accuracy.

“Oh, but it looks like it’s very painful even if it’s only 50% of the actual pain, ah! If my arm is bitten, I don’t want to think about it.”


“But it’s not that much. Kiki, a while ago, someone on the internet raised it to 50% in the middle of their broadcast and lit their body on fire. They said it’s more tolerable than you think, it’s like taking a really hot shower?”

Kijung Gong Gong’s huge body shuddered as Biyemi gave him a glance. Laughter came out from Leeha after seeing their friendly appearance.

“Oh, that’s the Trio.”

“You guys, are you going to catch wolves?”

“Can we go watch?”

And Leeha, Biyemi, and Kijung Gong Gong became a quite famous party in the wolf haunting area. There are so many people who come to see them to study their hunting methods.

There were a lot of people asking to join the party, but three was already enough for them and there was no need to increase the number of party members to share experience with.

“No! We’ll go to the Golden Eagle!”

“Huh? Is it okay to tell them that, Biyemi-nim?

“They will follow if I say that we will be catching wolves but it doesn’t matter because the golden eagle is an Instant Dungeon Kiki. Do not worry.”

“Hmm.”

The fans (?) of Leeha’s party, who are waving their hands in excitement, flinched and had a sullen expression when the Golden Eagle was mentioned.

‘He knows the game well. Is the Vietnamese community bigger than the Korean community?’

Leeha stared at Biyemi, who was in front of him. No country can openly share information. A lot of high-level information was circulated on private sites in the United States, but in the end, they were closed due to the amount of information getting out of the country.

Vietnam is no different than Korea, with a large number of gamers, the number of lightly shared information is bound to be overwhelming in Korea.

Besides, what kind of people are Korean gamers?

No one can afford to intensively dig into only one field.

It was certainly suspicious that Biyemi, a Vietnamese gamer with similar level to Leeha, had more information than him.

‘Well, it doesn’t matter as it helps me anyway.’

By the time they left the wolf haunting area, a mountain can be seen in the distance.


Candle Mountain. Climbing the mountain right away was the beginning of the quest for the Golden Eagle, which is the graduation requirement for beginners’ villages.

There were quite a few people at the entrance of Candle Mountain.

It was so prosperous that some of the merchants who opened their shops even prepared carts. The hunters go back and forth while bargaining with the merchants, and parties fighting each other is discouraged.

“Oh, crazy. Another failure. The only tanker died.”

“How do we proceed? Should we wait for the tanker?”

“Are you crazy? Why should we wait for two days.”

“Damn it! I said you should ignore them. The Servant Wolves doesn’t even give you experience, so why do you keep on hitting it.”

“No, I was following you. What should I do? As soon as it sees me, it changes aggro. If we threw away the tank and ran, we wouldn’t be able catch the golden eagle. And how do you go up there without dealing with Servant Wolf?”

“Just run! The tanker died because you were not doing you job properly in the first place!”

“What? What did you just say? Fuck, why are you blaming me?”

“Fuck? I’ll report you.”

“Fuck.”

Of course, there are many people, including merchants, because the quest is difficult.

Leeha and his colleagues walked while avoiding the users quarreling. Since other characters can be attacked starting at level 10, it is no exaggeration to say that PK starts here.

“We sell HP Boost Potion. 30% increase in 10 minutes~”

“Fire Arrow Scrolls for sale. 80 silver per sheet!”

In many cases, people failed to buy buff potions or disposable magic scrolls because the prices set by merchants are expensive and is similar to stealing the money that users have saved ever since their beginner’s days. And that is the reason the merchants are treated as public enemies.

“It’s a complete mess.”

“Kiki, of course. Even if you have a party of 4 or 5, you can’t even go beyond the Servant Wolf Zone if you have an odd party.”

“Hey, is there any odder party than ours? Keukeukeu, but what are we really going to do?”


Kijung Gong Gong looked around with a cowardly expression, unsuitable for his size. It is impossible for parties to enter the location of other parties.

This is because the Candle Mountain’s Golden Eagle Quest is entered in the form of an instance dungeon. Unlike general hunting grounds, you cannot enter the same dungeon unless you are in the same party, this is because it is a quest dungeon.

“How about organizing a full party?”

Leeha carefully suggested.

A dungeon that a 4 man party failed to complete, how difficult would it be for a 3 man party.

Probably, like the party that tried earlier, there is a high probability of dying while killing the wolves on the way to the top of the mountain.

In addition, they were a decent party with healers and tanks. On the contrary, Leeha’s party did not have a proper tanker or healer.

“Who would join us?”

Biyemi asked with a smile.

“Right. Huh.”

Kijung Gong Gong looked sad again. However, unlike Kijung Gong Gong, Leeha and Biyemi have confident expressions.

“Isn’t Ha Leeha-nim scared?”

Kijung Gong Gong asked.

“Well, after hunting, I came up with a better way.”

“What is it?”

“It’s difficult to explain in words. I think you’ll know when we go and try. But aren’t you worried Biyemi-nim?

“Kiki, well, it’s okay. There’s a reason why I have chosen a ugly character. I’ll go in first.”

“Yeah?”

‘What is he talking about?’

Biyemi did not answer Leeha’s question and walked toward the Candle Mountain.

In the distorted space next to where the merchants sat, with the unrealistic scene of the air flowing like a wave, Biyemi’s body disappeared as if he was sucked in.

“I don’t know what to believe. Let’s go as well, Kijung Gong Gong-nim.

“Wait.”

‘Is he maybe worried about his crow right now?’

Kijung Gong Gong fed his crow by breaking up a jerky.

“Let’s go now.”

“You take good care of your pet.”

“I felt sorry when I met this one. Keukeuk. Usually druids fight along with their pets while using small bows, but there are no bows made for the giants, so it had to deal all the damage by itself, so I need to feed it properly.”

Hearing Kijung Gong Gong’s words, Leeha smiled. It was like that on the Internet, but he thought he was a strangely simple young man.

“Let’s go in as well.”

“Yeah. I am going to believe Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Don’t be a burden.”

Leeha tapped Kijung Gong Gong on the back and stepped into the distorted space. Suddenly, he felt like being sucked in.

At that moment, Leeha wondered if the place he hit was not the giant’s back, but the butt. There is a difference in height.

“Come!”

“Move.”

The short woman, hiding behind the tall woman, emerged. Taking a step, terrifying blue hair stretched out into the air.

A feeling of dampness and moisture being drawn in the vicinity. Dozens of wolves trembled, feeling the sudden zzzzzchill.

“Frost Fog.”

A small hand outstretched into the air. Frost fog falls in the direction the palm points.

Kiing, Kiing_! Kuhaang!

Although their health varied individually, most servant wolves fell into place as soon as they breathed in a frosty fog through their nose.

The surviving servant wolves have low health, additionally they can’t run or walk with their lungs frozen. They can only stand as they waited for their death.

“I’ll finish it!”

“Save your mana. They don’t give any experience anyway.”

“Okay?”

Hwayeon, who tried to cast, lowered her hand. Hwajung walked and stretched out a small wand with the red haired Hwayeon behind. Ice arrows flew towards the standing servant wolves.

It was too much for the servant wolves, whose health is already low, but it did not even decrease Hwajung’s mana.

“Whew, since I have Hwajung, the quest will be finished right away.”

“You still have to finish it up.”

“Okay okay. Let’s go.”

The eldest daughter of Hong Kong’s Ram-Long group leader Ram Hwayeon, with the help of her younger sister, was quickly clearing the Golden Eagle Quest.

9th in the world ranking and 5th in the Asian ranking, cryomancer Ram Hwajung, all the creatures freeze where her hands reached out, and the ground where she step into become ice.

Whenever her blue hair fluttered in the air, the wolves couldn’t use any strength and fell to the floor.

It took less than an hour for the two women to reach the top of the mountain candle, which normally would take an hour just to climb.

“Is that a golden eagle?”

“Huh. The golden eagles and the king of the golden eagles.”

Beep yiik

An eagle that drews a huge circle on the peak. Hwayeon, who was looking at the sky, was greatly flustered. What with its size while flying in the sky like that?

‘How big is it when it comes down?’

The attack pattern of the Golden Eagle Kind is sound wave when in the sky and its sharp beak and strong wings when in the ground.

In addition, between the attack patterns of the Golden Eagle King, nearby eagles fly and aim at the eyeballs or scratch at users’ shoulders.

With a general party, it is recommended to have four or more people due to its difficulty.

“Cast your strongest spell.”

“Huh? Right now? Isn’t it too far?”

“Just cast.”

Only a blunt answer returned. Hwayeon watched Hwajung without unknowingly.

Wizards are weak. No matter how high the rank is, an eagle of that size can hurt a lot.

Hwajung didn’t even think about such a situation at all, and she began to cast magic with his arms outstretched toward the sky.

(To be continued…)
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In front of Hwajung, blue energy gathered together.

Kureureung，dark clouds began to cover the sky. As the cold wind began to blow in the sky, the Golden Eagle King and its subordinate slowly flew down.

Ppiiik-!

“H-Hwajung-ah? What spell is that?”

The sky began to darken.

As Hwajung is still casting calmly, there was a change in the weather that caused Hwayeon to feel overwhelming fear.

A Runic(語) language, the dark clouds gathering in the sky grew thicker every time a word is spoken. The blue energy entered Hwajung’s chest, passed through her hands and went to her fingertips.

‘Cool.’

A type of magic that even Hwayeon has never seen, the energy gathered at Hwajung’s fingertips looked like sapphire.

“Oops. I also need to cast.”

Hwayeon, who was looking at the growing sapphire, started casting. The Runic words coming from Hwajung’s mouth stopped and after a short while.

“Blizzard.”

Ppiiiiik—! The Golden Eagle King dove in a hurry after Hwajung started chanting, it wanted to kill the human that it is getting a sense of danger from, however, it was already too late.

A gale started blowing in the sky of Candle Mountain, the gale was so strong that it made it difficult for even the Golden Eagle King, the ruler of the Candle Mountain, to fly properly.

A huge chunk of ice flew along the strong wind.

“It’s hard to control when weakening its power, you should be able to finish it. You might level up thrice with this.”

Hwajung disbanded her party with Hwayeon without confirming the result and she immediately went out of the Instant Dungeon by using return magic.

After getting hit by the Blizzard, the eagles flying in the sky was not able to withstand it and dropped to the ground, while the creatures on the ground froze and died instantly.

Ram Hwayeon was the only one who left after the hellish blizzard，and her flame arrow flew towards the Golden Eagle King.

***


“Now then. Kijung Gong Gong-nim，do you have “One with Nature”?”

“One with Nature? Yes, I have it.”

Kijung Gong Gong responded to Biyemi’s question and opened his skill window. A skill that assimilates the user with nature to increase recovery.

However, it is a strange skill that cannot be used during battle, the skill can only be used outside of battle, during rest after the hunt is over. This is one of the reasons why druids can neither be full healer nor full tanker.

“Halee Halee-nim, get behind us.”

“Behind? Why?”

“Kiki, you’ll see it soon.”

Biyemi immediately started casting. Green light got sucked into his body in an instant, it is dark green color that is hard to miss even in a lush mountain.

“Poison Spit!”

It looked like something similar to when you’re lying down and spitting on your own face. Biyemi quickly finished spitting, no, casting poison on his body.

“B-Biyemi-nim? What are you doing?”

Leeha thought it was absurd and it flustered Kijung Gong Gong. However, Biyemi only continued spitting.

“Use One with Nature and follow me. Ha Leeha-nim please get behind us.”

“Are you going to lure the wolves?”

“Kiki, watch and see what happens.”

Biyemi took the lead with confidence, while Kijung Gong Gong and Leeha had no choice but to follow him with doubtful expressions.

What will happen if dozens Servant Wolves are aggroed at the same time if you walk in without countermeasures? It would be the worst situation.

In general, for completing the Golden Eagle quest, dragging the aggro of 5 or more servant wolves at once would result in failure. Moreover, there are dozens of servant wolves on the Candle Mountain.

It would take 10 minutes to climb the mountain and from the very beginning, they have already encountered a horde of Servant Wolves.

“I see wolves in front.”


Leeha said quietly. Beasts’ hearing should not be ignored. However, Biyemi only nodded and kept walking.

“Biyemi-nim! Biyemi-nim!”

“Please wait and see.”

Grrrr，grrrr.

‘Damn it, is he crazy? If he wants to die, he should die alone.’

Leeha opened his bag to get gunpowder and bullet but Kijung Gong Gong was already chasing after Biyemi, so he had no choice but to follow. If a battle breaks out, he will quickly open the gunpowder wrapper.

“Hm?”

No battle occured.

Kungkung，Grrrr.

“As expected. Kikikit，I knew it. These guys won’t attack us first.”

“No way! The Servant Wolves are making the Golden Eagle quest very difficult! How did you do this?”

Kijung Gong Gong raised his voice and quickly lowered it again.

The Servant Wolves around them have crumpled noses, and they couldn’t get close to Biyemi.

No, it wasn’t the extent that they couldn’t get close, but rather, it was more accurate to say that they are avoiding Biyemi.

“It’s because my body is covered with poison. Kikit, they’re smart, so they know when the food is dangerous. I didn’t choose to be a Lizardman for nothing.”

Biyemi looked at Leeha and Kijung Gong Gong while gesturing a V-sign.

“Why did you pick Lizardfolk?”

“Our race have basic resistance to poison, human Venom Mages don’t.”

Leeha was taken aback when Biyemi said “our” race so naturally, but what he mentioned about Lizardfolk shocking itself.

Figuring out the basic resistance value of the race and using it this way?


Leeha was in awe. He had no choice but to admire it.

Dozens of Servant Wolves were rendered useless. It was like Moses in the Red Sea, everywhere the lizard stepped, a path is opened.

“H-h-how about me?”

“Kijung Gong Gong-nim used One with Nature! Now, won’t Kijung Gong Gong-nim look like a huge tree to these guys? Kikikit. And with this, the wolves won’t be able to come this way, naturally Ha Leeha-nim would also be safe.”

Targeting the Game System’s gap, finding hidden Easter eggs, and using them. This is exactly what Goople intended, but he’s only level 10 and he found one!

Leeha looked at Biyemi without hiding his surprise, he has overwhelming knowledge of in-game settings and information. However, it appears that this is the first time that Biyemi this, as he has a rather excited look on his face.

‘Amazing. The game is so realistic. We can avoid the miscelaneous mobs, that don’t even give any experience, like this, and pour all my strength on the golden eagle. It’s definitely possible with three people now.’

Because there are only three of them, this strategy will work.

A level 10 Lizardman with the job of Venom Mage cannot clear it by himself.

Of course, the same goes for a level 10 Giant Druid alone. Even if these two people form a party, it is still impossible to clear the quest.

Even if they are able to avoid the Servant Wolf and climb to the top, they won’t be able to kill the quest boss, the Golden Eagle King, because there won’t be enough dealers.

But now it is different, as they no longer need to deal with the Servant Wolves, Leeha is able to save all 40 sets of gunpowder.

With the musket several times stronger than magic of the same level, he could pour it all on the Golden Eagle if Kijung Gong Gong can hold on for a little bit and clearing the quest will no longer be a dream.

Kkaaak–!

In the middle of the Servant Wolves’ area, above Leeha’s party, a crow’s cry was heard. A flustered expression emerged in Biyemi’s face.

“Oh! The crow! Unsummon the crow Kijung Gong Gong-nim!”

“Yes?”

No matter how tame the summoned crow is, there was no way to keep it calm as they passed through an area full of wolves.

A wild crow would have run away, however with Kijung Gong Gong’s care, the crow’s intimacy with its summoner is at 100%, which would mean that it also has high loyalty .

It was enough to peck the Servant Wolf’s eyes.

“C-cancel summon!”

With Kijung Gong Gong’s quick casting. The crow flying towards the wolf disappeared like a lie. To be exact, it was sent back to nature’s subspace, it can be summoned again once the cooldown is over.

But it’s already too late.

“Umm……. We might get logged out like this.”

Biyemi swallowed dry saliva, the flustered lizard rolled his eyes around, but it was already too late.

The intention to attack was clear fortunately, the attack was not successful, so it was not 100 percent agro, but the attitude of the Servant Wolves changed.

The wolves are no longer retreating. They surrounded the party as they were familiar with group hunting.

The servant wolves are ready to attack the unidentified being that threatened them.

“Haa. Sorry, I’m really sorry. I’ll stop them, so you guys go down the mountain quickly. If you run fast, you will be able to get out of here.”

Kijung Gong Gong tightened his gloves, he was determined to pay for his mistakes with his life. Biyemi as well, thought that this would be the end of hunting with Kijung Gong Gong.

There are more than 20 wolves surrounding the party. It would be better for someone to sacrifice themselves for a hunt that would fail anyway.

“Thank you, Kijung Gong Gong-nim.”

“No. It’s my fault. Even if you don’t have me, you will be able to complete the quest as long as you find a tank. Don’t mind me, just go. I’ll come back in 48 hours.”

Quest failure and death, level down and no access for 48 hours.

That’s 48 hours in real time, so it’s 10 days in Middle Earth. Even if Kijung Gong Gong, who has fallen to level 9, reconnects, it will be quite different from Leeha and Biyemi.

It can be said that once Kijung Gong Gong dies, the three people will not be able to party again.

“I-I’ll whisper to you, so please don’t ignore it.”

“That won’t happen. Thank you, Kijung Gong Gong-nim. Haa, you will have to hold on to your stamina.”

Biyemi fell back and relaxed his ankle. Before the Giant dies, they must reach the foot of the mountain and get to the escape point of the instance dungeon.

Even that isn’t really easy. Kijung Gong Gong is not a regular tanker, and if there are 20 wolves, he will die in no time.

“W-wait. Please don’t attack, Kijung Gong Gong-nim. Everyone hang on.”

It was then that Leeha stepped forward.

When everyone was about to fall into despair, Leeha held his musket.

“Why? If you run late, you will be attacked first. I’d rather hit quickly and you guys run away-”

“If Kijung Gong Gong-nim dies, we can’t hunt in a party again. It’s not good to break up like this.”

Leeha held his musket and spoke.

“If we live, we live together, if we die, we die together.”

“Leeha-nim.”

The 2m 50cm creature is even close to tears. When Leeha saw the giant’s eyes getting wet, he was rather embarassed.

“Do you have a way? With your musket?”

Biyemi’s words were quick, they did not have enough time to talk slowly. Leeha made eye contact with Biyemi, laughed and started to reload without a word.

“HaliHali-nim? What are you doing?”

Biyemi and Kijung Gong Gong’s eyes were focused on Leeha.

‘Is there anything else? Something like the secret weapon you’ve been hiding until now?’

However, he only poured gunpowder, no bullet came out of Leeha’s pockets.

‘No, it was a little weird, did he just pour gunpowder twice?’

“What are you doing? Flint?”

“Keukeuk. Cover your ears.”

Leeha raised the musket’s muzzle to the sky. His index finger twitched. BAAAAANG—!”!

“Uwaah!”

“Keuk, my ear hurts!”

Kijung Gong Gong and Biyemi frowned. Their heads were dizzy at the loud explosion that seemed to have rang all over the Candle Mountain.

“What are you doing, will the wolves die when you suddenly shoot up to the sky?”

(To be continued.)
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Biyemi began to get a little annoyed. Why did he act so rashly? Although it was not what they wanted, it would have been better if the two of them ran away quickly to survive.

Leeha’s actions would likely bring all of the servant wolves into the mountain. Now, the three of them would have to die without being able to do anything.

Did they all have to die together in order to continue hunting in a party? Wasn’t that ridiculous?

“Let’s go.”

“Where can we go with the wolves blocking the- What?”

If lizards had jaws, Biyemi’s would have dropped.

“Keukeuk, I had an idea and after seeing Biyemi-nim do it, I was sure that it 100% works.”

Leeha walked out like a crippled elder and used his musket like a crutch.

The wolves around them retreated a few steps to give them a path and among them; some hid behind trees, and there were even those who ran away without stopping at all.

“Surely, no way.”

“H-how did you do it, Leeha-nim?”

“I’ll explain later, so come quickly. Its duration is a whole lot shorter than poison.”

The path was opened and there were no more obstructions.

Upon reaching the Golden Eagle Zone, it was said that servant wolves would no longer chase the players, so for the time being, they had to climb nonstop.

‘It’s fortunate that my stamina is full. And even when it drops, it should still be fine because of the Runner’s High skill.’

Ha Leeha eagerly climbed using his musket as a crutch.

Biyemi looked closely at Leeha’s back.


Kijung Gong Gong kept leering at the servant wolves following slowly behind them in case they suddenly attacked.

They continued to climb the mountain for a long time without saying anything.

He was trying to figure out what on earth Leeha did until Biyemi realized.

“Gunpowder? It’s surely gunpowder, isn’t it? They ran away when they saw the smoke- no!”

“Heh, he must have noticed.”

Leeha took a peek at Biyemi’s expression and laughed.

As expected, he had a good understanding of the game system. No, should it be said that he had a lot of common sense or knowledge about reality?

“Smell! They ran away because of the smell of gunpowder! Right? Right, Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Oh, you can say it’s something similar to that?”

“Ah! Isn’t it because wolves have a strong sense of smell?”

From Biyemi’s overreaction to Kijung Gong Gong’s admiration. Leeha happily pulled out a bag of gunpowder.

“I don’t exactly know how, but it should be that way. It’s my first time trying it too.”

“Oh my goodness. No way.”

However, Leeha made a rough estimation, from his first wolf hunt, where they knew the dangers of a gun, and at the same time, they also had aversion to the smell of gunpowder.

It’s a smell that is hard to get accustomed to even for humans, how much more for wolves? It must be a tremendous stimulus.

‘However, using two seems to be too much. I have to be careful as it can damage the barrel.’

Fortunately, Leeha’s gamble was successful. They didn’t need to waste resources on miscellaneous mobs that did not even give them experience.

“Ha Leeha-nim, have you played Middle Earth before? You have knowledge that is not currently available, and even a job that no one chooses.”

During their final maintenance before the summit, as the servant wolves were no longer chasing and went down the mountain to rest already, Biyemi stepped up and asked Leeha, who was sitting, using a very small voice.

“Have you tried Middle Earth?


“This is the first time I played.”

“Ah, right.”

What’s this sound like? Biyemi, who was still looking at Leeha’s expression, quickly got up from his seat.

“Let’s go, let’s go. I think we’re almost there.”

“Wait a minute, I’ll summon my crow again. Please turn your head around.”

“Why?”

At Biyemi’s question, Kijung Gong Gong’s face turned red.

“This, when using this skill, it’s a little… embarrassing.”

“What is it? What is it? Do it quickly. I am getting curious.”

Leeha, who had been thinking about Biyemi’s question, got interested and naturally turned to Kijung Gong Gong.

‘Why is he getting embarrassed at using his skills?’

“Carry on. It can’t be helped, can it?”

Kijung Gong Gong sighed and cast his skill.

No, could you call that a skill? The huge giant was dancing.

A 2.5m giant that pierced the sky and the earth, danced an old disco dance movement, what was worse was, it was done slowly.

“Puhahaha! What are you doing, Kijung Gong Gong-nim!”

“Kikikikiki! Amazing, there was a skill like that?”

“N-Nature worship is a requirement for druid skill casting. Especially on summons.”

“Wah, really?”

Leeha was barely able to hold back his retort.


‘I didn’t realize that there are different varieties in Middle Earth.’

You had to perform a ritual of nature worship before you could summon. Leeha had suddenly improved his outlook on the Musketeer Job.

‘It’s much better to shoot, than doing such an ugly dance in front of someone. Hehe.’

In fact, it was only at this moment that Leeha realized that there was nothing better. Who could laugh at a person who killed a rabbit using a musket’s butt because he missed at a distance of 35 meters?

In the Middle Earth community, there were still people who were asking about the job that used a gun as a weapon, that is how impressive it was to other users.

Kaaa- Kaaa- The summoned crow circled Kijung Gong Gong’s head and landed on his shoulder.

“Okay, okay. Were you scared?”

Kkaa-!

“Hihi, you’re so cute.”

Kijung Gong Gong once again cut jerky pieces and fed them to his crow. It looked like he was having a conversation with the crow.

Leeha and Biyemi, who had never dealt with summons, looked at each other. It looked like a happy scene as laughter kept coming out.

“Let’s climb. This is the Golden Eagle Zone.”

Biyemi smiled and took out a dagger and lifted it. Now, the happy times were over, the fight for life and death would begin again.

Biyemi in front, Kijung Gong Gong in the middle, and Leeha at the back. They were 5 meters apart from each other, and after a while, Biyemi stopped and clenched his fist. It was a sign to stop. The lizard’s long index finger pointed to the sky.

As they turned to the pointed direction, a swarm of eagles wandering through the sky came into their view.

“Are those eagles?”

“Yes. The big one over there is the king. It’s the one we have to catch.”

“My gawd…”

Leeha was as surprised as Kijung Gong Gong, but he didn’t find it absurd.

‘Is this game just about getting bigger? What kind of eagle is that? Didn’t they make the rabbit king the size of a bull? There might be monsters the size of a building later.’

Measuring sizes was one of the fundamental skills of a sniper.

Even though I had no telescope, I was able to estimate the size of the Golden Eagle King by comparing it to the size of the Golden Eagles flying around it.

If the eagles flying around were the size of a common eagle, the Golden Eagle King was about four times their size.

A normal golden eagle is about 2.5 meters when it spreads its wings. Then what about 4 times that?

It would mean that the wings would be around 10 meters from end to end. It is about the size of a light aircraft.

Biiik!

Kkaak-! KKaak-!

“Oh. Let’s go.”

With a single cry from the Golden Eagle King, the summoned crow went into a frenzy and landed on Kijung Gong Gong’s shoulder.

Was it even possible to get its permission to fly in the same sky? The beast’s fear of the Golden Eagle King was ideal for humans.

“Shall we talk about the patterns? First is a descending attack. Ha Leeha-nim, it’s possible to break one’s shoulder if you get caught, you might die in one shot, so be careful..”

Leeha nodded at Biyemi’s words. Because the boss’s pattern had already been studied and shared in the community.

A special attack capable of killing a mage or priest-type character with a single blow. It was not easy to fight back against an airborne enemy. Besides, it was basically too far away, so there was no means of attacking.

“Next is a sonic attack. It would sit on a nearby tree and cry, if you get hit head-on, there is a high probability of getting stunned, so you have to be careful. If you get stunned, you would be eagle food.”

It’s the attack pattern targeted by users.

During this time, the Golden Eagle King would be close, and because it was sitting on a tree, it would not be able to move. At that time, they could grasp the opportunity to deal as much damage as possible.

Of course, once it received even a little amount of damage, it flew up again and prepared for a descending attack.

“Once its health drops to 30%, it will come down and attack on the ground, at that time Kijung Gong Gong-nim needs to pick everything you can and beat it. Even if it’s just a small stone.”

“Umm, should I do that?”

“Yes.”

While Kijung Gong Gong looked at the sky，Biyemi stood behind him and said with an ant-like voice, ‘If you’re alive until then.’

Surprised, Leeha tried to hit Biyemi, but the Lizardman was already preparing to cast.

“Are you all ready? I’ll go first.”

A pattern that couldn’t be preemptively used. In the eyes of the golden eagles, he had to respond by dragging aggro and launching magic or long-range attacks during the descent attack.

It was a commonly known attack pattern of the golden eagle.

“No. Don’t go out. Please wait a moment.”

“Yes?”

“I’ll shoot it first.”

Leeha wanted to block the pattern.

“W-what? Ha Leeha-nim you’re going to shoot?”

Leeha nodded at Biyemi’s question.

“I can shoot and drag it down, but I need to at least shoot it once before it comes down. If we vainly attack now and fail, we would lose an opportunity. Besides, it wouldn’t be a good idea to fight the eagles first.”

Not to the point of being bad, but the one with the weakest defense here was Leeha, who was a Musketeer.

Biyemi said lightly, “If you are unlucky, you might miss the shot.”

Kijung Gong Gong also joined in Biyeemi’s disapproval.

“L-Leeha-nim! Are you sure about it? The distance from here to there is enormous! Even if you look at it roughly… How much is it.”

Kijung Gong Gong and Biyemi squinted their eyes with great effort. It was difficult for normal people to quickly determine the size and distance of objects.

Leeha laughed like a kind teacher and stepped out.

“I think it’s about 90m.”

Leeha has already opened the bag of gunpowder.

“With a height of 80m. The Golden Eagle King is flying at about 90m? Kukkuk, doesn’t it tolerate anything above it because it’s a king?”

“90m? No, are you joking right now?”

From the peak of Candle Mountain there additional 90 meters again. If it’s from the ground, how many meters would it be? However, disregarding Biyemi and Kijung Gong’s surprise, Leeha pushed the iron ball bullet into the muzzle.

“I might miss, so get ready to cast right away, Biyemi-nim.”

“I’m already on it.”

“Kkik. Have you no faith? Ah, Kijung Gong Gong-nim, please come here and squat.”

Ignoring Biyemi’s doubtful expression, Leeha called the Giant.

“W-why?”

“I’ll use you as a stand.”

“Hmm? What?”

“Kkil Kkil, squat calmly.”

When shooting toward the sky, the posture was bound to be unstable, and Leeha wanted to find something to lean on to increase stability as much as possible. And what he found was the giant who was the hardest and largest, which would make it easier to adjust the angle.

“Take a slow breath. You should never take a big breath.”

“Isn’t that order too hard?”

“He can do it. Because giants are big.”

Biyemi wanted to ask what it had to do with anything, but Leeha was already leaning on Kijung Gong Gong’s body.

While Kijung Gong Gong slowly controlled his breathing, Leeha looked at the Golden Eagle King that was flying in the sky.

‘I said that it was 90 meters but it’s actually between 95 and 110 meters, and it also fluctuates. It was somewhat irregular due to the up and down overlapping movements, but overall, it was flying with a large 8 character.’

A flying beast entered the scope’s sight as if it were enlarged.

The wings and tail feathers were spread out in a diamond shape, making it easier to identify the large body.

‘The tail feathers were unique, so the center of the body was easily recognizable, but the flight speed was quite fast. Damn, it would be much better if the bullet speed was a little faster.’

How much more does it fly up and down instead of going left and right, and how fast is its speed?

It could be considered a completely different case from hitting a wolf or a Black Angus running on the ground.

“Huup.”

Leeha took a breath.

“HaliHali-nim?”

Enough time had passed that Biyemi became impatient while he watched from the side.

However, Leeha was not in a hurry.

The giant Kijung Gong Gong inevitably moved when he breathed and Leeha took the timing of his and Kijung Gong Gong’s breathing.

“Haa…”

He exhaled loudly this time.

The point where you hold back your breath is after you take a big breath and exhale. It’s the gap until the time to breathe in again.

When Leeha and Kijung Gong Gong’s breathing paused.

The moment the two people’s breathing completely stopped was also the moment that the muzzle pointing toward the sky stopped completely.

“You’re only aiming, when are you going to sho–”

Taaang—— Leeha pulled the trigger.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha lifted his elbow from Jin Gonggong’s back. He wanted to confirm whether it was hit or how much damage was dealt, however, he was not able to see the sky properly.

“Heol…”

“How did it go- uh, what is this?”

Biyemi and Jin Gonggong were in similar situations.

A notification window popped up, blocking their sight.

“One shot…? No way.”

“Oh, even though I was the one who shot, I find it ridiculous. Haha. What happened?”

Because it could only be explained as a miracle.

Due to the difference in speed, he shot the part that was easier to hit, but rather than missing, the bullet hit its weakness.

A monster the size of a small light aircraft fell from the sky.

『The Candle Mountain’s, the Golden Eagle King, died.』

『You will automatically exit from the instance dungeon after 30 seconds.』

『You have acquired Golden Eagle feathers.』

『You leveled up.』

『Skill – Musket Mastery level has risen to 4.』

『Achievement: Defeat the Candle Mountain’s Ruler (E)』

Congratulations! You have defeated the Candle Mountain’s Ruler, the Golden Eagle King. The beasts that threatened the village of Candle Castle will return to their ecosystem.

Reward: Strength +1, agility +1, intelligence +1, stamina +1, mind +1

“Oh, awesome, awesome! Leeha-nim is amazing! This is the second time I’m getting an achievement! It raises a lot of stats! +1 on all stats!”

Jin Gonggong looked in the air and laughed. The notification window was only visible to each individual, and Biyemi would have been confused if he saw Leeha’s achievements. However, the real embarrassment was less than the shooting.


They received similar notifications, but as the actual attacker, additional notification windows appeared in front of Leeha.

『Achievement: One shot, one kill! – Golden Eagle King (D-)』

Congratulations! Instakilled the Golden Eagle King with one blow! Aren’t you ashamed of playing in the beginner zone at your level? Make way for the next generation! But you still need to receive a small gift for the achievement, right? Effect: Strength +2, agility +2, intelligence +2

『Achievement: Sniper’s Etymology (C+)』 Congratulations! ‘The marksman who shoots snipe’! You are a real sniper who hits a flying target 100m away. So let me tell you the sniper’s first proverb! ‘Make sure they don’t even know you’re shooting.’

Reward: Agility +6, constitution +3, intelligence +3, skill: Calm Mind Acquired.

You are the second to be registered for the Achievement 『Sniper’s Etymology』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied. Effect: Agility +12, constitution +6, intelligence +6

“Heol… What is this… What?”

Did the bullet hit at the time it went up? Beyond 100m?

『You will automatically exit from the instance dungeon after 15 seconds.』

The system message awakened the dumbfounded Leeha. Quest completed. With the large number of things that popped up, he didn’t know what to prioritize. But in the midst of confusion, he clearly saw…

‘Meat!’

The meat wasn’t acquired automatically.

“Uwaah!”

“W-where are you going Leeha-nim?!”

Ignoring Jin Gonggong’s call, Leeha ran. An enormous eagle leveled the ground off.

Leeha thought that the eagle should be able to fly in the sky with him on its back.

‘I did this…? Besides, in one shot… No, it should be because it went through its head.’

Leeha looked at the eagle’s hollow head.

『You have acquired Golden Eagle meat.』


『Instance dungeon is closing.』

『You automatically exit from the instance dungeon.』

His body flashed, he wondered if his vision was flashing for a moment, and then Leeha, Biyemi, and Jin Gonggong came back to the entrance of the Candle Mountain.

Thinking of the time they spent climbing up, they really went down in the blink of an eye.

“Wow, it’s definitely a long graduation quest. Didn’t we just hit the jackpot? Right, Biyemi-nim?”

The smile on Jin Gonggong’s face did not disappear.

“Hehe, my first achievement was getting 100% intimacy. It was an F-class achievement. Certainly, the E grade is good.”

The lizard’s eyes opened sharply when the excited giant made a noise without shutting his mouth.

“… What happened, Leeha-nim?”

“Yes? What is it?”

“How did you do it? How did you take a nap?”

Biyemi lowered his voice while saying the words, “In one shot.”

It was a situation that may be heard by nearby users, so he naturally hid the information.

“What is it, Biyemi-nim? It’s good to wake up quickly!”

“It’s not a problem to wake up quickly. It’s not something we can do at our level now, with our abilities. Did you aim at its head? No, it’s a bird-type monster, so it has low defense.

Biyemi, who had spoken towards Jin Gonggong, turned back to look at Leeha. Biyemi was even more confused than when Leeha took the shot.

“There’s no way you could have caught it. What did you use? Buff?”

“What do you mean? Haha, look closely. Do I have anything to use?”

Biyemi bit his lips gently. Right. Looking closely. From the foot of the Candle Mountain to the top, Leeha did not use any scroll or potion.

“Then it’s really… just by shooting? Does that mean you had a critical hit?”


“I was lucky. It was just a gamble. Why would I be doing this if it was always possible?! Don’t you think so?”

“That’s right, Biyemi-nim. Suddenly you look like a real lizard.”

Jin Gonggong snuck up and stood next to Leeha.

Biyemi was still skeptical but there was nothing he could do to reveal Leeha’s secret.

With stats that were higher than his current level, and shooting skills to make use of those abilities. Others would not be able to understand.

“Such… I’m sorry, haliHali-nim. I was curious because it was something I had never heard of, so I was excited.”

“I was also excited. Doesn’t it feel like we’re completely beaten again? Kikiki, your words are true.”

It seemed like their relationship had improved again, but Leeha watched Biyemi’s expression change. Not because he was a lizard, but because it was human nature to inevitably feel jealousy and envy.

Leeha promised himself that from now on, he would never tell anyone what kind of achievements he got.

‘This is the sniper’s first proverb. Yes, I’ll keep it to myself.’

Leeha was able to foresee their reaction if he told them how he did it. It was similar to getting a stomach ache after learning that your cousin bought a new land.

It was just a simple whining, but users like Biyemi would never get over it.

“Oh! Oh! Indeed! Indeed, my eyes were not wrong. Thank you, Leeha-Kun.”

“Keuk Keuk, thank you. Captain Jiat.”

Wouldn’t he have said the same thing to all the users who went through Candle Castle so far? However, Leeha received Jiat’s words happily.

『You have completed the quest of the Ruler of Candle Mountain.』

『Fibiel Kingdom national contribution has increased by 30.』

『You leveled up.』

“Here it is. Brown Bess Musket Academy, which is in the capital, it’s not an exaggeration to say that it’s the best training center on the continent. You seem to have already grasped weaknesses, but I have no doubts that I believe it will make Ha Leeha-kun’s eyes even sharper.”

“Weakness? Haha, anyway thank you.”

The word weakness. Leeha remembered the title he had earned as he listened to Jiat’s words. I got the title ‘Knows a little about weaknesses’.

If I had a title, would I be able to tell?

However, without more time to think about it, Jiat gave an item.

『Received a letter of introduction for Brown BessMusket Academy.』

『You have acquired 90 copper.』

“Thank you. Even if you leave Candle Castle, I look forward to you becoming a great talent for our Fibiel Kingdom.”

Jiat walked slowly and hugged Leeha.

The warmth of Jiat was felt beyond the crackling sound of the chain mail.

At this moment, it wasn’t just 100% intimacy seen by numbers. His heart warmed up for those who feel like a really close elder hyung or a close ajussi.

“Woah, what? Does the NPC hug you?”

“Free Hug?”

“What? I’ve never seen anything like that.”

And it was a bonus that the surrounding users were looking at Leeha with surprised eyes.

Jin Gonggong was also surprised by the users, but Biyemi did not show any reaction.

“What are you going to do now?”

Following Leeha, Biyemi, and Jin Gonggong were complete, and everyone reached level 12.

It was an incredibly fast level-up speed for a party that met while catching wolves at levels 8 and 9.

“I have to go to the Emerald Forest. It’s a place where druids must go to meditate.”

He pulled out the letter of introduction from his bag and read it. Of course, the items Jiat gave had different destinations for each job.

“I’m going to the Tamba Jungle… It’s near the Emerald Forest. How about Ha Leeha-nim?”

‘Is he saying that he can figure out the location just by listening to the name?’

Since there was no map, it would not be possible to check in real-time except to see the location indicated on the homepage. Leeha stuck his tongue out at Biyemi’s ability.

“I need to go to the capital. Ael- Looks like it has a city where I need to do something in. Oh, there is also the academy.”

Aelstock.

The capital was located in the central part of the Fibiel Kingdom.

Since it’s dealing with gunpowder, it’s natural to have an academy in a developed city.

Leeha’s words made Jin Gonggong tear up.

“T-too bad. I wanted to continue. We’re completely invincible when the three of us are together.”

“Kiki, You are going with me. Don’t you like it?”

“W-what. I like it. I’m so lucky to go with Biyemi-nim.”

Lizardia played a joke by striking the Giant’s side. Jin Gonggong had an embarrassed expression while Biyemi had a teasing face. Leeha also felt that it was time to break up.

“We won’t be separated forever, and we added each other as friends, so you don’t have to worry. No need to be sad for no reason.”

“Still…”

It was different from the party hunt in the normal game. Truly, a comrade who lived and died together.

It was even more regretful because they shared the same sadness of having an unpopular race and an unpopular job.

(To be continued…)
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“Kiki, that’s right. If the three of us have similar growth rates then we will see each other again someday.”

The Lizardia said.

“Then see you again later, Leeha-nim!”

“Be careful! Ha Leeha-nim! Kiki.”

Be careful? What do you mean be careful? Leeha just waved his hand toward the two of them as they moved away.

The Lizardia and Giant stood out even after they entered the crowd. Users around them made sounds while they looked at the two races. Seeing their surprise, Leeha giggled.

“Well, I should be going now too. Before that…”

‘I thought I would use 40 sets of gunpowder, but I still have it. This alone makes me happy, but compared to what I will get moving forward, it’s like a drop in a bucket.’

“What the hell is going on?”

Leeha once again confirmed the things he missed while he was avoiding Biyemi’s suspicion.

『Achievement: One shot, one kill! – Golden Eagle King (D-)』

『Achievement: Sniper’s Etymology (C+)』 『Sniper etymology』 Second to register the achievement.

“What is this really?”

Leeha once again opened his status window to check his stats.

‘I have leveled up once?’ That’s not even a problem. In addition, he got bonus stat points when he got to level 10, he thought about what stats he should increase but calmed his pounding heart.

“Character window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 12 (7%)

Title: Knows a little about weakness / Achievement: 10 HP: 540 / MP: 130 Stats: Strength 31 (+21) Agility 85(+55) Intelligence 30(+20) Constitution 26(+16) Mind 12(+2)

Remaining Stat Points: 40

‘Heol… It’s a cheat. This looks like a cheat to me. I did not add any points to strength and intelligence but they are both over 30.


Leeha could see it himself. He only added stats when he was level 5 and never added again after level 6.

Nevertheless, what were these ridiculous numbers?

The total amount of status points received from Achievements, titles, and even Madame Lu’s lunch box was 114 points.

Except for the bonus points he got at level 10, what if you just calculate it as a level for every 5 stat points?

“About 23 levels…

It means that it’s worth 23 levels if you only calculated the points earned. What about the 40 stat points that haven’t been used?

Leeha’s level was not 12, it should be considered as level 27 or higher, even compared to those who had quite a bit of achievement.

As mentioned, ordinary users graduated from beginner villages and only got one or two achievements.

And one of them should be catching the Golden Eagle which gave +1 to all stats.

The other is mostly about the minor achievements you got when you were a beginner.

There’s no way they would achieve something like Leeha’s ridiculous achievements, which were recorded in the Hall of Fame. If you looked at it like that, it would be safe to compare it with more than 30 levels.

‘Stat points… Let’s use it first.’

He didn’t really feel the lack of attack power.

He wanted to use it to increase his stamina, but they didn’t seem to be lacking because there were many achievements that increased stamina.

First of all, since he hadn’t been beaten by a monster recently, it was not urgent.

“Haha, really now.”

Leeha forcibly held back his laugh and closed his character window. Next was the skill window. There was something new from getting achievements.

『Beginner’s Calm Mind (Lv.l)』 Explanation: When aiming at a moving target, the calmer you need to be. As you calm your mind, the trembling of your hand will stop. Effect: Accuracy increased by 15% for 3 seconds Mana: 50 Cooldown: 30 minutes

“Hmm… This should be good.”

Good. The fact that the accuracy rate was increased by more than 10% was really incredible. With this skill, you could increase your accuracy by nearly 70% from a distance of 100m.


‘But 3 seconds?? 30 minutes? Shouldn’t the two be swapped?’

Was it so difficult to keep a calm mind? If you used the skill, you had to fire within 3 seconds, and you couldn’t use it for 30 minutes after that.

‘Certainly staying calm is hard.’

Leeha tilted at the ambiguous effect.

『Beginner’s Musket Mastery (Passive)(Lv.4)』

Description: You become more familiar with the musket the more you use it. Increases accuracy and reloading speed.

Effect: Additional increase in accuracy 1.5%, additional increase in loading speed 1.5%

“Uum… Can this be considered as good?”

I’ve reached level 4, but 1.5%? Obviously, at level 1, it was just 0%. Then, it can be said that it is increased by 0.5% per level.

“This is true…”

But it’s a little vague.

The bargaining skill which was also at level 4 like the Musket Mastery, made Leeha feel that way.

‘Right, it’s already at level 4. Let’s take it slowly, slowly.’

Because, like items, skills also had ranks. It was said that every time a skill reached level 10, its rank would rise.

The first was beginner, the next would be intermediate, and the third would be advanced. The fourth was the master.

This is what has been revealed so far.

It was said that level 200 rankers had just entered the master rank. It would be very difficult to raise the skill level, but as the Maximum level had not been revealed yet, there must be a next one.

‘At the beginner-level 4 level, the accuracy rate is increased by 1.5%. What if you raise the mastery to about master rank level 10?’

Maybe at that time, it would increase by 50% with just the passive? What if you used a calm mind then?

‘Will the accuracy exceed 100%? No, does that make sense? Kik Kik.’


Leeha was currently level 12. Having such delusions should be viewed as cute.

“Hello!”

“Omomo, whose this? If it isn’t 『Knows a little about weaknesses』 Ha Leeha-kuun. Have you already successfully hunted?”

“Aigoo, really. Please don’t call me that and hunting… Keuk keuk, yes. I was successful.”

Madame Lu welcomed Leeha who entered the Holy Grill. Leeha smiled cheerfully and took out the meat of the golden eagle.

“Isn’t it too fast? You’re not trying to cheat me, right?”

“Cheat you? I’ve received so much from madame, how could I cheat you?”

He did not want to cheat, and even if she could be cheated, Leeha did not want to cheat the Giant in the kitchen. It was terrible to imagine that he would rush out with the big knife while trimming the meat he had been sent using trickery.

“Hoho, I also trust Ha Leeha. So, where’s the meat?”

“Here it is.”

“Ah, this…

『You have completed the quest: Coordination with the development of a new menu of the Holy Grill(2).』

Madame Lu looked at the large chunk of meat that Leeha took out. The meat of the golden eagle, extending from its wings to its legs, was enough to fill the bag.

“Amazing. This elasticity… Oh, here’s a special remuneration.”

“What if you didn’t give it?”

“How could we do that to our Leeha-ssi?!”

Madame Lu winked at Leeha.

『Obtained 1 silver.』

“Oh!”

In fact, 1 silver is not a large amount, but it felt like a lot of money from Leeha’s point of view. He has to, as he only thinks about gunpowder and fire.

“You know, the meat of the golden eagle isn’t readily available, right?”

“Ah…

Leeha was able to understand Madame Lu’s words. All beginners hunted it but it won’t be easy to get meat.

A linked quest with Candle Castle’s hidden boss, black Angus. He didn’t know, but there were only a few people who had received the quest.

If you didn’t receive the quest, the item won’t come out, so you won’t be able to get it.

‘Plus, isn’t 30 seconds too short?’

He didn’t know about other Instance Dungeon, but the Golden Eagle dungeon only took 30 seconds to close after death.

In normal cases, it would be difficult to even take the meat. Leeha would also have failed if he had not had experienced running on mountain trails in the army.

‘The day came to appreciate the mountain march experience.’

Of course, considering the degree of difficulty that even Madame Lu’s own was difficult to obtain… As expected, the one silver special reward was very small.

“I’ll make a lunch box, so wait. Oh, why don’t you go in and see our Kiyomi? He was sad that he wasn’t able to see you last time.”

“He felt sad?”

“Yes. Because it’s difficult to meet people like Leeha-ssi on a regular basis. He said he wanted to see you again as he was sharpening his knife.”

Recalling the huge kitchen knife, Leeha swallowed nervously. Today, he had no choice but to meet him.

“You don’t want to?”

“I do. I will say hello before leaving. Haha.”

Don’t tell me we’re going down and I’m going to become a human meat dumpling as they did in some old novel, right? Leeha followed Madame Lu and went to the kitchen.

“Kiyomi! Ha Leeha-ssi is here!”

“Are you saying the meat has come?”

The bass echoing the giant’s cave spread through the kitchen. He said, “I’m here, but you said that the meat came?

“Yes. It’s very plump.”

“That’s good.”

Kung, Kung, the kitchen ingredients trembled every step of the way. Giant Chef Kiyo-Mifgar stood in front of Leeha.

“Oh, here…”

Leeha looked into the giant chef’s eyes that were looking at him. They were profoundly wet eyes.

Suddenly, Leeha thought of another giant he knew. Jin Gonggong’s simple expression and Kiyo-Mifgar’s expression were somewhat similar.

“Thank you.”

The Giant literally took a step and hugged him tightly.

“Oooouehk, why, why are you doing this?”

Leeha regretted that he did not even load his musket. Fortunately, it didn’t seem to be his intention to suffocate Leeha.

His eyes were twinkling and his expression was very bright.

“I didn’t think that someone would bring such good meat like this. Like the last Black Angus, it’s absolutely impossible for anyone who isn’t interested in cooking. Ahm.”

“Ugh, huh, then let go of me first- please.”

It could be said that he was glad he found out a new fact about choking in-game. Kiyo-Mifgar hurriedly released Leeha from the hug and laid him down.

Leeha eased his breathing by inhaling a stifled breath.

“Do you like meat?”

“Phew. Meat? Yes. Of course, I like meat.

“In my opinion, people who like meat cannot be bad. Have you ever thought of learning to cook?”

“Yes?”

Leeha suddenly recalled what Madame Lu had said last time. Yes, the Giant Chef said he wanted to teach you cooking himself.

Obviously, there is no job as a chef. In Middle Earth, classes are only classified as related to battle. However, it is not without production skills.

‘Right. Some people deliberately choose a warrior class to become blacksmiths.’

People who chose their main class in a direction that favored subclasses and production skills and connected them. Such people called themselves craftsmen and production workers.

The most popular ones were blacksmiths, carpenters, and tailors, and it was said that the income of skilled craftsmen was better than expected.

Of course, being a craftsman wasn’t easy. In order to obtain production skills, you had to learn and polish their basic skills first.

For example, a person who wanted to become a blacksmith had to learn mining as a miner first, and a person who wanted to become a carpenter had to learn logging as a woodcutter, and if he wanted to become a tailor, he had to learn the skill of spinning threads first.

In other words, the basis for learning practical production skills was that you had to learn the skills related to the materials used first.

‘If so… Is cooking a primary skill or secondary skill?’

The relationship was certainly ambiguous.

However, since it was close to ‘production’, I wonder if it is a secondary production skill… If cooking requires primary skills, do I need skills related to slaughter? Or growing vegetables?

Anyway, I think I need something, but maybe the fact that he was looking for good quality meat was enough to satisfy the qualifications.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 31

				
‘But this is really ambiguous.’

Cooking was not a very popular production skill.

There were restaurants in each village already, and it was not a skill that users were interested in as food was only needed to satisfy hunger. Above all, there were rumors that there was a limit to learning production skills as it was impossible for one person to learn more than three.

‘I’m hesitant.’

Leeha pondered for a moment. If he must learn a production skill, he wanted to learn something that would help him make money or or it should at least be practical.

‘The skill to make muskets or bullets myself! How cool would it be? I can save money as well.

It would mean that I have to save one production skill slot. What should I do?’

After thinking deeply, Leeha said.

“I would like to learn.”

‘There was no reason to refuse good fortune. Besides, he already experienced the power of a well-cooked meal.

‘I don’t know when I could learn other skills anyway and it will be useful once you learn something. What would happen if I could make something like Madame Lu’s lunchbox?’

The special lunch box was a quest reward, so it was impossible to trade. However, if Leeha could make it, won’t the lunch box be tradeable?

What if he made a lunch box that permanently increases stats?

He wasn’t sure, but wasn’t it just a matter of time to earn 20,000 gold?

This was the reason Leeha made the decision. What was the reason that I started Middle Earth? Money!

“Good. Compressed daily cooking class! I’ll definitely inject it to your head!”

“What? Inject?”

“Cooking is about creativity! However, in order to be creative, you must have the basic knowledge. Haha! You’re going to get busy the whole day!”

『Chef Kiyo-Mifgar’s One-day cooking lesson.』

Description: Giants, a race that excel in taste more than anyone else. Chef Kiyo-Mifgar likes to teach various dishes that are not only delicious but also make your body healthy. You will know its true value through daily practice. Of course, you can’t become a chef in one day. Content: Chef Kiyo-Mifgar’s lesson


Reward: Skill: Cooking

-Would you like to accept it?

‘Ara? Is that all?’

Leeha read the quest window carefully.

Take a lesson? Besides, the title is one day. In other words, if I took a class today, I could learn the skill.

‘Hmm, ah! This is a game.’

Leeha realized that he had mistaken reality and Middle Earth.

After all, this was a game. In other words, the game system naturally intervened in this type of situation.

‘Not only with magic, but also swordsmanship.’

A person who was really good at cooking would be able to learn much faster, but the system also allowed people who are not skilled to learn as well. Now he was getting a little sense of the intentions of Middle Earth.

“I’ll do it.”

“Good! Stand by my side and assist well!”

“Assist?”

“Isn’t it the fastest way to learn how to cook is through practice? I will teach you thoroughly in practice.”

“Immediately, I see. I will learn diligently.”

Although newly promoted, he was still a sergeant. He also lived as an official on the premises. In other words, it meant that he lived on his own for quite a while.

If it was cooking, it was something that he had quite a bit of experience in.

He was relieved to think that there was nothing he could not do with simple dishes. Most of all, he only needed to invest one day.

However, he did not have a clue on what was about to happen.

He couldn’t have imagined how infamous Chef Kiyo-Mifgar was in the culinary world.


“What are you looking at? You need to clean up first! When peeling the skin, make it thin like this. Look carefully at the texture of the meat! If you cut it like that, the texture of the meat will be damaged! Huh? Should I cut off four of your fingers to show as an example?”

“Rabbit meat shouldn’t be grilled like that! Don’t you know something as basic as this? It smells bad when it’s not cooked, and if it’s overcooked, it’s tough and you can’t eat it! Especially the meat that goes into this salad should be grilled thoroughly! Don’t you know that?”

“You’re doing your best? Best!? Can you show me what the real best is? Even dogs won’t eat this!”

“Damn it! Do you think this is grilled? Huh? Go out and bring a priest! Healing this roasted rabbit will bring it back to life!”

“This b*stard! You didn’t turn down the fire? You think you are better than me? Would you like to put it in the brazier?”

“Kaak ptew! Don’t you feel sorry for the salad with this kind of dressing? It would be better to just eat raw grass!”

“Are you calling this a boiled dish? The life of boiled dishes is fire! You can’t eat this because it’s tough! You should just make jerky with it!”

“This looks unappetizing! Did you make poop from the start, thinking that it will turn into poop when you eat it?”

“Oh, God! Did I say I’m going to teach this idiot to cook! If I can go back to the past, I’ll cut off my tongue and stop myself, damn kid.”

Kiyo-Mifgar closed his eyes and licked his thick, filthy lips. Leeha suddenly thought that he wanted to shoot a gun in his mouth.

“I can barely swallow it now. Not bad..”

Gulp, the Giant swallowed the meat and chewed.

This was a tremendous development compared to his previous appearance, where Leeha squirmed on the floor in front of him.

“Haa, haa, did I pass?”

Phew.

He nodded his head. Suddenly, his whole body seems to have been relieved of tension. Even when I killed the king of the golden eagle right through the head, I wasn’t relieved like this.

“Haaaa…

“You had a lot of hardship. Learning to cook like this in one day, must be because you like the teacher. There is no end to the path of cooking, so make sure to devote yourself to it wherever you go.”

A teacher for a day was still a teacher.

Whatever Leeha’s thoughts were, Kiyo-Mifgar treated Leeha as his disciple, a chef from the Holy Grill.


“Thank you I learned well.”

『Skill: Cooking』 learned.

『You can make food using ingredients.』

Leeha gave a polite response while holding himself back from shouting. He didn’t need to be rude, just because he worked hard and endured for a whole day.

As soon as the tension was relieved, another notification window popped up.

『Vitality has been reduced to less than 30%. Penalties will be applied.』

『HP, mP, and stamina will not recover..』

How hard could it have been? Of course, even though Leeha was exhausted, Kiyo-Mifgar’s mouth did not rest. His passion for cooking is very high.

“The roasting was okay, but the one that was boiled before was better. It’s embarrassing to call it a boiled dish, but it can be preserved for a long time if it is dried after removing its moisture.”

“Yes, I will study hard.”

Leeha poked out his lips. It was hard but he learned something. But now, he was so exhausted that he would curse if he was told to eat something, let alone cook.

“Are you going now?”

“I have to go.”

Since he came in in the morning, the time is already…

It was the closing time of the Holy Grill. In an empty restaurant without customers, Leeha paced back and forth.

“Omomomo, why do you look so weak? You won’t be able to carry the lunchbox if you’re like that.”

“Oops, I forgot about the lunch box.”

Right, the quest reward, he forgot.

He came to get the quest reward, but he suffered so much from the giant chef he forgot it!

“I already have it ready.”

When Leeha reached out with a lunch box on the counter, madame Lu took it away.

“Is there something wrong?”

“I have a request for Ha Leeha-ssi.”

“Request?”

Madame Lu approached Leeha in the hall where no one was present.

“W-w-why?”

“Hnnng, will you do me a favor?”

“Haha, it is not good to ask, without even telling the content first.”

Now, Leeha did not allow himself to suffer from NPCs. Madame Lu’s steps stopped at Leeha’s words. A smile hung from her lips.

“You were taught the best cooking skills from Kiyomi, why are you talking like that? What can I do… in order for Ha Leeha-ssi to be willing to help me~?”

Madame Lu spoke in a polite and friendly, nasal tone, and took out another lunch box.

『Holy Grill Capital Branch Opening Lobby』

Description: The food is ready. The best meat aroma in the continent comes from Candle Castle. This is Madame Lu’s last request in order to open the second branch of Holy Grill in the capital, aelstock.

“You just need to give it to my sister who lives in the capital along with the letter inside. But it won’t be easy. But I trust Ha Leeha-ssi.”

Content: A lunchbox and a letter to be delivered to Madame Joo in Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom within a month.

Reward: Invitation to the opening ceremony of Sacred Grill Second Brand.

Failure conditions: Exceeding the deadline, the disappearance of a lunch box.

Failure: -50% intimacy with Madame Lu, -20% with all NPCs in Candle Castle, -15% with all NPCs in the capital Ael Stock

– Would you like to accept it?

Leeha carefully read the quest message on the window.

‘Isn’t it strange?’

Isn’t this quest too easy for Madame Lu to come and say something so serious? Even the Black Angus Quest she gave without caring much.

And this was just a lunchbox delivery.

The recipient was Madame Lu’s younger sister, madame Joo.

It was also not hard to find the location. Because it said that it was in Aelstock.

‘But what’s not easy?

Looking at the request, it was the end of the chain quest that started with Black Angus. Even the reward was weird.’

Opening Ceremony Invitation? What’s good about attending an opening ceremony? Compared to the ridiculous rewards, the penalty was severe in case of failure.

It was a decline in familiarity with NPCs in the capital when I haven’t even arrived yet.

“Hmm… Are there any difficulties? Just deliver it and it’s over?”

“Yes.”

“Is your younger sister, madame Joo, a monster? Or is she hiding in the depths of the dungeon?”

“Omomo. What’s wrong with a kid who lives well in the capital?”

“Then, why is it difficult?”

“People.”

“People?”

“The world is not easy.”

“What are you talking about?”

However, madame Lu only laughed at Leeha’s question. The NPC told him to be careful with people.

“Um, are there any assassins chasing this lunchbox?”

“Of course not! But, I think that would be okay too? The murder that took place aiming at our Holy Grill’s lunch box. It would be a very good story.”

Madame Lu’s eyes sparkled.

“Oheungheung, that would be a good topic. So, will our Leeha-ssi not accept my request?”

The road from Candle Castle to the capital, aelstock, is about 500km in a straight line.

‘It is 9 nights and 10 days even if you travel nonstop. The road won’t be good, and it won’t be straight. It might take a month, it would at least take forty-five days if I was unlucky and had to climb a mountain.’

It is said that it would take more than 4 days in real-time to climb a mountain.

Leeha agonized over it for a while.

‘How many minutes does it take before the quest disappears?’

Was it 3 minutes? 5 Minutes? It seems that 3 minutes have already passed, so it appears to be 5 minutes. Leeha spoke after thinking a little more.

“I will do it.”

Brown Bess Musket Academy is also in the capital.

He had to go anyway. However, he was worried because he didn’t know what kind of quests he would encounter on the way.

“Of course, I thought you would. Thank you! Now, here is the lunch box made of golden eagles and the lunch box to be delivered to Joo.”

“But will that lunch box not go bad in a month?”

“Ah, it will be okay. It usually does, but we put preservation magic on it. It will be preserved for as short as 3 months and as long as half a year. What do you see me as… Oheungheung?”

So, wouldn’t that mean that it wasn’t necessary to set the deadline to one month?

“I know what you’re thinking. However, preservation is literally preservation. The taste can only be maintained for at least one month. So, definitely! Can you deliver it in a month?”

Madame Lu laughed and went back to the counter.

Two lunch boxes were in Leeha’s hands.

Upon accepting the quest, the clock began to tick.

He had to go to Aelstock within a month.

(To be continued…)
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“‘Beware of people’… That was a bit of a strange advice.”

Even close to midnight, there were still many people in Candle Castle’s Fountain Square. Leeha opened his bag to check his lunch box before logging out.

‘Let’s start with the lunch box of the Golden Eagle Quest reward.’

『Excellent Special Lunch Box (Golden Eagle King)』

Description: A special lunch box made by Madame Lu of the Holy Grill. When 3 people eat, even if 4 die, no one would notice. The Ruler of the Candle Mountain even has an imposing taste! Non-Tradable.

Effect: Agility +3, constitution +1(Permanent)

“Oooh, Yeeees!”

Leeha jumped up from the bench and screamed.

“Kkak! What?”

“Why did you suddenly scream?”

People were startled and looked at Leeha as if he was crazy.

“I-I’m sorry.”

Leeha came to his senses, bowed his head, and apologized.

‘Black Angus had +1 Agility and +2 Constitution. This is higher! And the rank is ‘excellent’’.

It had the same rank as Black Angus, but it had a better effect. It was only a well-grilled barbecue, but in Leeha’s eyes, it looked like celestial food.

“Ah, amazing. It suddenly smells like chicken.”

“What the- is delivery possible in Middle Earth?”

The users of the plaza sniffed and while they were dumbfounded, Leeha hurriedly ate the wings and legs.

“Oh, it’s crazy delicious.”

『Agility has increased by 3』


『Your health has increased by 1』

He was amazed by Holy Grill’s cooking skills. Moreover, since Leeha learned cooking from Kiyo-Mifgar, he felt even more moved. Now if he could make this…

‘How the hell was this grilled?’

He wanted to go and quickly raise his cooking skill. If he could cook like this, he could repair his legs and lessen his mother’s burden. Leeha, who sucked even the meat attached to the bones, suddenly became curious.

‘What about the lunch box that was sent to the capital?’

‘Food prepared by the Holy Grill for the tribute!’

Perhaps Madame Ju, who lived in Aelstock, would take the lunchbox to someone to taste it to get permission to open the branch of Holy Grill. Of course, there was a high probability that the person was of high status in the capital.

‘Then, it would make sense if it has a higher rank than the one that was given to me.’

Leeha opened his bag and took out the lunch box.

“Hmm, this one looks normal.”

There was no difference from what I ate. In particular, it didn’t have a special scent like Leeha’s lunch box.

‘What? Why doesn’t it smell?’

Leeha sniffed and opened the item’s information.

『Rare Lunch Box of Truth(Golden Eagle Kind)』

Description: A special lunch box containing all the secrets of the Holy Grill. As soon as the preservation is released, all breathing creatures will become slaves to Madame Lu. The only drug the country allows, it’s the Holy Grill’s barbeque! (-180 days in storage)

Effect: Strength +5, agility +10, constitution+5(Permanent)

“Oh? Oh! What’s this?”

Leeha jumped up from his seat. He almost dropped his lunch box.

“Wha-”

Oops, Leeha managed to hold his breath and prevent the sound from escaping.


‘No way!’

Rare rank! It was the highest item rating that was currently revealed in Middle Earth. Was it just barbecue?

‘What are these ridiculous stats? A total of 20 points? Its effect is similar to leveling up 4 times.’

His heartbeat sped up. It was similar to his heartbeat when the Combat Assistance System was turned on. It’s ridiculous. It was a cheat key that increased one’s ability level.

“What’s going on??”

“Yes? Ah, it’s nothing. It’s okay.”

It was only after someone had spoken that Leeha realized what he must have looked like. He himself even wondered what was going on.

“What are you doing standing there alone? What’s in the lunch box?”

“Oh! Please don’t touch that!”

“Goodness. Why are you yelling?”

“Hu, ha. I’m sorry.”

“You looked like a low level so I tried to help, but this is what I get…”

The man who spoke to Leeha frowned and walked away. In case someone else saw it, Leeha quickly covered the lid of the lunch box and put it in his bag. It was natural that his movements were extremely careful and gentle.

‘Haa, crazy stats, crazy items. It didn’t even have a limit.’

Since it was food, there were no restrictions on consumption. But it was not the restriction that Leeha was thinking about. Gulp, it was decisively better than the quest reward.

“Right, it’s tradeable…”

He did not see the words “Non-Tradable”. An item that increased total stats by 20 points, and didn’t need to be equipped. What would the price be?

Leeha logged out of Middle Earth.

‘This is a jackpot. The quest that started in Black Angus snowballed greatly.’

Leeha focused on the screen while scrolling down with the mouse.


Cash trading sites were still active. Still, the gold price is about US$ 100 per gold. With Korean money, the market price was around 100,000 won per gold.

『Premium Sale』 Level 180 Special Rank One-Handed Sword 『W25,000,000』

『Sale』 Mi$ddle$Ear$th 50 Gold『W1,200,000 per 10 Gold Split Transaction』

『Buy』 I’m buying 50 silver, fast Trade! T_T 『W55,000』

『Purchase』 Buying Level 80 Excellent Rank Two-handed Sword Appearance does not matter. 『W3,000,000』

『Sales, transaction completed』 Level 110 Leather Shoes. Movement Speed +15%, agility +6 『W14,000,000』

『Buy』 Buy 30 gold. Fast Transaction 『W3,000,000』

There was no need to look up the last transaction record.

The prices the items were sold at that immediately appeared in front of Leeha weren’t a joke.

An item that increased agility by +6 with an additional effect that increased movement speed by 11%.

It was worth 14 million won.

‘That’s crazy. It’s even a product that has been used, right?’

Looking at the ability increase, the rank was only excellent. However, it was expensive because there was an additional effect of 15% movement speed.

The title that sparkled at the top was a premium sale, the item was ‘special grade’ and was worth 25 million won.

‘It is expensive because the one-handed sword is the most popular weapon. Of course, the special rank is incredibly good but compared to my lunch box…

The lunch box that Leeha had was ‘rare’, above the special grade.

Items in high demand were expensive. This made sense when looking at supply and demand. So how about Leeha’s lunch box?

“Everyone can use it!”

It wasn’t a skill that required you to have a certain job. You didn’t have to wear it because it was ingestible food.

It could raise stat points and it didn’t have any requirements, so it could be used by anyone.

In other words, it could be sold to users in virtually all occupations.

‘Even if I give a conservative estimate, it would still cost at least 50 million won. The price will increase even further if I include high-level players. Should I proceed with an auction? It may exceed 100 million.’

It was not easy to measure the price because you couldn’t compare it with something similar.

However, even if it cost 50 million won estimating it conservatively. There was a possibility that the fair value was 100 million won.

‘If I sell it for only 100 million…’

I could simply earn Middle Earth Gold! It was not enough.

Money. I can also have an awful lot of cash at hand.

Leeha began to get greedy.

For him, money was like a cure.

‘If this item is sold for 100 million, it’s like 5% of my leg repair, right?’

The treatment costs 2 billion won, which seemed virtually impossible. And right now, Leeha was already in a situation where he could earn 100 million won.

Suddenly, Leeha came up with a different idea.

‘No. No, you need to calm down, Ha Leeha.’

Leeha calmed his heartbeat that was about to explode, cooled his head slowly, and organized his breathing.

‘What would happen if a sniper gets excited?’

The condition of the quest’s failure…

‘In case of failure, intimacy decreases.’

The 100% intimacy at Candle Castle would be gone, and he would also lose intimacy in the capital when he hadn’t even arrived yet. And as soon as he arrived, he would get ignored.

So?

Wasn’t that only a decrease in intimacy with NPCs?

“What’s that compared to 100 million won?”

How much money was 100 million won? Even for a young person, that just entered society, might not be able to earn 100 million even if he worked hard for years. Even if Leeha did not spend a single penny of his sergeant’s salary he would die before saving that amount of money.

‘It takes more than 5 years to live while drinking only the Han River water. It’s a lot of money.’

In reality, the money was much larger than that. For salaried workers, 100 million won was a goal and dream-like money.

‘This quest’s success reward… Huu, what kind of opening ceremony is it?’

Participation in the opening ceremony of the Holy Grill Capital Branch. Was it worth 100 million won?

Leeha held his head.

The moment he sold the lunch box, he would be betraying Madame Lu, so to speak. Holy Grill Capital branch may not be able to open.

No, it definitely was impossible for it to open. It was because the required item for tribute disappeared.

‘No! Shouldn’t this quest have been completed already? If so, there should be a Holy Grill Capital branch already. Middle Earth has been open for 4 months… But no one can complete it?’

After arriving in the capital, the second Holy Grill may be open already. In other words, this was simply one of the repeating quests, and Madame Lu may be the NPC responsible for it.

If so, there shouldn’t be any damage to Madame Lu even if he didn’t deliver this lunch box to her sister in the capital, right?

‘Right. First of all, it’s not a person! It’s just a game NPC. Just think of her as an NPC!’

‘But what is this feeling that pierces my heart?’

It looks like there were sharp thorns in Leeha’s mind. Beings he met in a world capable of moving his disabled body. NPCs, no, people whom he met in a place more realistic than reality. People? Leeha laughed self-deprecatingly.

‘I’m really crazy.’

Was Leeha too good, and simply couldn’t treat them as NPCs?

At that moment, madame Lu’s words came to mind.

‘Is it possible to be careful with people?’ Wasn’t it something like that? Didn’t she mean that it wasn’t easy? Not to be tempted.

Wouldn’t the person Madame Lu was referring to, not someone else, but Leeha himself?

“Haa…”

“How can a young man sigh so much? How are you, son?”

He was greeted by his mother who just came in.

“Ah, mom. You haven’t slept yet?”

“I woke up to drink water. What are you doing not sleeping? Are you busy?”

“I’ll sleep soon. Do not worry.”

“Yes, I think I’ll be a little late tomorrow because I have guests booking dinner. I’ll have a side dish, so make sure you have dinner.”

Overtime at a restaurant that didn’t even give extra allowances. Leeha nodded, concealing his bitterness.

When he saw his mother closing the door and going back to bed, Leeha fell into temptation even more.

(To be continued…)
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Sometimes the answer comes from where you least expect it..

“Can’t I just go to the capital before thinking about it? I have to go anyway, so what can I do after thinking about it in advance? Even if you sell it for cash, it would be better to sell it in the capital. It has a floating population that a beginner village like Candle Castle can’t possibly compare to.”

After accessing Middle Earth, he went to the general store.

“Boss.”

“H-Ha Leeha-nim, no, Ha Leeha-ssi you’re here. Hehe, how was your harvest today?”

“It’s hard to find Buwak herbs these days. I’m still looking for it, so please wait a little longer.”

“Ah, right. It won’t be easy to get.”

Leeha was shamelessly acting. He didn’t even go near the southern forest, let alone the Buwak herb. And in the first place, he returned the sachet to make the Black Angus come out to Madame Lu, so he would not be able to get it anymore.

He did not feel guilty doing this to the half-bald general store owner, however he did not know it would be the same with Madame Lu.

“What about the wholesaler?”

“The sun has just risen, but they should be coming. They might be on the way. Hehe, wait a bit, how about a cup of coffee?”

“It would be nice to have some.”

It would have been different if the buwak herbs had not been attached as bait.

‘This ajussi might really exist in real life.’

He smiled and sat down on the guest chair. Smelling the coffee from the counter, Leeha looked around the general store.

“Do you sell maps here by any chance?”

“Yes I do.”

“How much are they?”

“The map near Candle Castle is 80 silver. The entire map of the Fibiel Kingdom is 5 gold.”

Leeha almost spat out the coffee he had been drinking. How much was this guy selling it for? He needed to ask again if he had heard him correctly. What kind of map was that expensive?


“The map is worth 5 gold?”

“The original map is a luxury item. Of course, it is expensive. We only have two of them in our store. Common people can’t even… Ahem!”

“Did you try to say that the common people can’t even buy one?”

“Who would say something like that? Hehe, let’s have some more coffee.”

Therefore, there would be people who printed and connected local information on the Internet, memorized them and played with the knowledge they obtained. It was because it was too expensive to see maps in Middle Earth.

As the current location was displayed like a navigation, a map was essential when going to an unexplored area, but it was not necessary for low-level users or Leeha.

‘In the past, trade and sailing games were also played offline while memorizing maps. Is it going to be the same here?’

Leeha drank a sip of coffee. It was night in reality, but morning in Middle Earth. Leeha was now accustomed to living in such a strangely shifted time zone.

He suddenly felt a faint buzzing in his head as he whispered to Kijung.

-You there?

He heard a sound in his head after a while.

-Hyung! Are you not asleep yet?

Leeha smiled.

-What are you doing, master K? – Kukuku! I’m in the middle of leveling, hunting with my guildmates.

-Sounds wonderful. Oh by the way, I’m level 12 now. I’m going to the capital soon. Will I be able to see your face there?

– Wow. You’re already level 12? H-How? What about the golden eagle?

-I already hunted it a long time ago.

– Amazing… That’s really fast… I wanted to give you some tips on how to catch the Golden Eagle.

– You might even be more surprised about the tips that I have.

He had chased the Servant Wolf with the smell of gunpowder and killed the Golden Eagle in one shot. Could Kijung possibly imagine how he had done it? Additionally, because Biyemi, who knew a lot about the game’s secrets, was in the party, they were able to proceed smoothly.


-Congratulations anyway! If you come to the capital, I’ll treat you to something nice Hyung-nim!

-Okay, thanks.

-How envious! Hyung, you’re in Candle Castle, right? Did you happen to see Ram Hwajung? Didn’t you say you were in the Candle Castle last time?

Leeha could feel the excitement in his voice.

Leeha barely held his laughter. Did he see her? He did not just see her.

He saw Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung. He caught the Black Angus, the hidden boss of Candle Castle, in one shot. The two women saw it and asked him to add them as friends.

-Well, I saw Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon together.

-I-It’s a shame. You should have called me.

Kijung was sincerely disappointed.

-Are you a part of Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon’s fan club? Actually I-

-I wanted to kill them… It would have been easier to hunt if Ram Hwayeon had been together… previously.

– …

– Oh? Oh?

His voice was filled with anger. Leeha was quite surprised as he knew that Kijung did not like to swear.

-In fact what? Have you been hurt, too? Ah, those two really…!

-N-no. What harm? But, are you angry?

-Our guild also put a bounty for the real-time location of Ram Hwajung. If I knew she was in Candle Castle, I would have gone there.

-The kid… the lady? And beat her up?

-Little lady? Well, it must be because you saw her in town. That bitch is crazy.

A little lady with blue straight hair. She was cute and her job was a Cryomancer. Although they did not talk that much, the image of Ram Hwajung remained in Leeha’s memory.


However, he could feel that Kijung’s anger was sincere. Leeha’s head was buzzing from Kijung’s persistent swearing.

-W-what happened?

-The story is a bit complicated, but we are at war. Did you see her use magic? It’s absolutely brutal. I was also hit by her.

-You too?

-My guildmates and I were ambushed and before we knew it our bodies were frozen solid. I could see her clearly, but I could not move my body at all. At that moment, the sisters came to me with a smile and cut my neck. Do you know what it feels like when your neck is cut off?

-The feeling of seeing my body falling, with my head falling to the ground right before I was judged dead, it was so realistic. The death penalty is only 48 hours, but I haven’t been able to log in for 5 days because of that. Dropping items, dropping levels. Those bitches….! If I meet them again… whew they’re dead meat!

Kijung was pouring out his resentments.

Leeha had heard that Middle Earth’s PK could turn into ‘Real-Life PK’, but if you really thought about it, it could really happen.

It was the reason why Leeha was taken aback. Kijung was so angry that it even made his head hurt. We’re whispers capable of capturing emotions like this?

-Sorry, hyung. I was talking to hyung but I swore nonstop. I’m sorry.

-No, it’s okay. I know how angry you are. So your guild and Ram Hwajung’s guild are at war, right?

-It’s not just us. Didn’t you say you saw Ram Hwayeon? She’s suddenly spilling money and is expanding her influence. She can only do it because she has the backing of a big corporation.

-Yeah, that’s right.

-Then of course we don’t have a choice but to bump into each other. You should know how to do things in moderation, but she has a conglomerate backing. The word ‘moderate’ is not in her vocabulary. She stretched her hands out like a conglomerate that absorbed the commercial area of the alley… Even if our guild joined forces with other guilds, we are barely able to deal with them. Their momentum is enormous. Sooner or later, they would be in the top 5 guilds in Middle Earth.

And a lot of people did not like that. Certainly, Leeha also saw comments cursing at Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon on the Internet.

He thought it was just envy and jealousy. If they were at war with Korean guilds, the Ram Sisters would completely be public enemies of all Koreans.

‘Then what about me? If I entered Kijung’s guild, I would have to fight the Ram Sisters. If I join the Ram Sisters’ guild, do I have to fight Kijung? I thought I could go anywhere and get help, but why did this happen? First of all, I shouldn’t join either of them.’

When the Ram Sisters fought with Kijung, Leeha decided he should pretend that he did not know the sisters.

In addition to receiving a scouting offer from the Flame Mage Ram Hwayeon, the actual guild master, they even added him as a friend.

‘Because those rankers don’t add friends to just anyone.’

In the Friends window, he could see the current connection status and approximate location of his friends. In other words, Leeha could tell Kijung the location of Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon right at that very moment.

“Oh my head will burst… really.”

“What’s wrong with you?”

“I’m not saying it to the boss. Haha. The coffee is good. But when will the wholesaler–”

The doorbell rang lightly.

“Boss, I’ve got the stuff!”

It was then that a big man with a string tied around his forehead came in.

“Bob-ssi! You came early!”

“Aren’t you going to introduce someone to me today? I can’t be late. Haha.”

It was immediately clear that he was a wholesaler. Leeha also stood up from his seat.

“Hello.”

“Yes, hello. Ah, this is?”

The lively man called Bob turned to the half-bald general store owner. An awkward silence ensued. The general store owner nodded.

“Hey, didn’t you say you will buy a lot of gunpowder? In the future, I will make sure to deliver on time. I’m Bob.”

“It’s not a lot, but it’s absolutely necessary for a job. Haha, I would like an inexpensive and high quality guy.”

“So how much are you going to buy? Now, let’s see… I have roughly 500 bags of gunpowder.”

500 bags! 50 silver! It was an amount that could not be bought even with all of Leeha’s current assets!

For Leeha who thought that gunpowder and ammunition were a necessity, 500 sets of gunpowder and bullets would give him a tremendous sense of stability.

“Well, I don’t have that much money right now. If you buy it at the delivery price here-”

“Ahem, huh! Would you like to talk about that in a little bit Leeha-ssi? Wait, weren’t you just about to leave? Let’s start with what we ordered, bob-ssi? Come inside.”

The half-bald general store owner suddenly coughed and stopped talking.

His eyes were shaking and sweat trickled down from his balding forehead.

‘What is it? Is he… anxious? Why?’

The general store owner tried to pull Bob inside.

“W-wait a minute please.”

“Yes?”

Leeha instinctively knew. That he shouldn’t let these two people go in.

Why did they need to have a conversation that did not include Leeha? Leeha was growing more and more suspicious as the seconds went by.

“Gunpowder! How much does it cost? And its delivery price!”

“That’s-”

“Uwah! Uwaaah!”

The grocery store owner was struggling. It appeared that he was somehow trying to stop him from speaking, but Bob already opened his mouth.

“It’s 4 coppers each.”

“4 Coppers? 4 coppers for one bag?”

“T-that’s right. Is there anything wrong… … ?”

When Bob was confused, the general store owner’s body stiffened.

“So what about the iron ball?”

“1 copper per each.”

Yes, that was what he had thought. Leeha turned his head to the general store owner, with a menacing look.

“Boss?”

He bought gunpowder for 4 coppers each, and sold it for 10 coppers each. And he bought iron beads for 1 copper and sold them for 3 coppers each? ‘Did he think I was a pushover?’

(To be continued…)
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“Oh, look, that… Hehe. I-I have to eat and live too.”

Leeha remembered clearly. What the general store owner said when he brought the bread sprinkled with Buwak herbs. He said that he would sell them to him for half the price of gunpowder, which would mean that from ten coppers each, it would become five coppers each!

He pretended to lose money and patronized Leeha! He was trying to cut off Leeha’s nose with eyes wide open. It might be because he had loads left!

From the start, he was selling an item worth four coppers for ten coppers. The profit margin was like no other. Bob didn’t even make the gunpowder himself, which meant that the actual cost was cheaper. Leeha did not stay too angry about it.

“I do not have a Buwak herb.”

“Aaah! Aaah!!! Leeha-nim, Ha Leeha-nim! Wait!”

Leeha walked out of the general store. Bob would come out of the general store anyway, and Leeha planned on using that for leverage.

“Well, I am sorry for that. But it’s true that our gunpowder is a top-notch product-”

“Selling what he brought as it is, what high-end and low-end product are you even talking about? Anyway, it is true that it was sold for more than twice the cost. Do you want to know something about the Buwak herb bread? Well too bad, I don’t have one.”

“Please! Please don’t be like this, look at the bigger picture.”

The general store owner ran out and grabbed Leeha’s pants, crawling on the floor.

“Let go!”

“Please give me one more chance! I will give you something else. So what do you need? Our general store doesn’t just sell gunpowder!”

“Let go of my pants!”

“No! The Buwak herb bread is mine! *cough cough*.”

It was close to a scene from a movie. The general store owner grabbed Leeha’s pants and begged for bread. His appearance and the fake coughing looked similar to a Korean drama.

“Don’t go! Please don’t go!”

The grocery store owner, who said he would never let go, hung onto Leeha. He was doing his best to get out of this predicament.

“Really? Okay, are you really going to give me something else? What would you give me?”

Like a cicada, it was impossible to move Leeha.


However, Leeha was curious about what he would get out of this new opportunity and how much he could rip him off for.

“Are there any muskets here?”

“Well, that’s probably in the weapon store.”

“What about armor? Well, pants or shoes.”

“In the Tailor’s Shop…”

“What about a ring or necklace?”

“Maybe you can get it from the Jewelry store…”

“This- huuu, then what can you give me?”

Come to think of it, the grocery store was a place that only handled miscellaneous goods. It was a place that didn’t have anything that would presently help Leeha, nor was there anything he needed.

“Eh, what to give you…. gunpowder?”

“I will buy it from Bob. I asked you to introduce me to him and that was the deal.”

“Umm…. Then let’s see…”

“You have nothing to give me, right? Then the Buwak herb-”

“Ah! Ahhh!”

First of all, it was bait that Leeha threw at random to get a hold of the conversation.

Normally, it was a tactic that people used to get discounts from stores, but at this moment Leeha turned around to truly leave.

The grocery store owner finally declared surrender at his actions.

“Pick one for yourself, whatever you see that you want! I’ll give you literally anything!”

Leeha suddenly stopped and stood tall.

“You’ll let me pick out anything I want?”


“Anything! Everything you see right now is cheap too.”

“C-Cheap! There are items that cost five silver coins… And you call it cheap?”

Leeha did not have a lot of money left and he did not know the intention of the general store owner who was trying to dispose of the items that were not selling well.

But this time the general store owner was wrong, and Leeha knew very well what the most expensive item was.

“Okay. I can only get one it seems.”

“Hehe, you can get whatev-”

“The map of Fibiel Kingdom.”

“Wha- you can’t! Do you know how much that is that you are asking for!”

“Then, buwak herb bread is off the table.”

Even if there was a map or not, it was enough. It was 5 gold, so he just asked for the most expensive one. The general store owner was greatly flustered, and when Leeha tried to go out again, he screamed in a hurry.

“Wait! Wait!”

“Huu, huu…”

The general store owner was out of breath. He had no hair, so the sweat on his forehead could be seen. Leeha stared at a middle-aged man who wiped his sweat off his face like washing his face with a hand towel.

‘G-Great.’

Bob did not only sell items at Candle Castle but he also supplied large quantities of goods to remote villages in the Fibiel Kingdom. As a peddler, he had thick bones, but there was an opponent he struggled to face and it was the general store owner of Candle Castle.

‘Boss, isn’t it different from what you said?’

‘And what can you do? Didn’t you obviously know that the number of strangers coming to our village has decreased recently? This time, I will only pay for this amount, and I will be sure to pay you back on the next payment.’

‘I can’t even get to the next town if you get it.’

‘Hoho, I know that there is nothing more unbelievable than the sound of losing to a merchant. Please, just this time, bob-ssi. Yes?’

What could he do if the general store owner had no business ethics? He was a villainous storekeeper who smiled while eating the customers’ pockets alive.


Bob may have the upper hand in terms of supplying goods, but Candle Castle was a place where these unknown strangers continued to come in. If he couldn’t deliver to the general store owner for some reason, bob’s pockets were bound to get lighter.

‘Such a person now… Is crying and holding onto the pants of a young man? Did he figure out his weakness?

“Okay. I can only get one.”

“Hehe, you can get whatev-”

“The map of Fibiel Kingdom.”

Hup, bob took a breath at Leeha’s words.

‘His discerning eye is outstanding!’

(E/N : wow unicorns can fly!)

At the same time, the eyes of the grocery store owner died. Most of the items sold at grocery stores are close to junk, even to a peddler like Bob.

‘In the meantime, if I can pick one of the only valuable items… it would be the map. Moreover, the map here is not just a rough scale and location. It was a complete map officially published by King Fibiel, which is different from cheap maps. The mages of the royal castle made it themselves, and the cost was basically enormous, and the performance was great.’

Even Bob, who traveled only to remote regions, did not carry a complete map of Fibiel Kingdom because it is too expensive.

‘It would be nice if they lowered the price a little, but you can’t bargain against the strong. There might even be a chance to get your merchant’s license revoked if you try to lower its price. But it’s really nice stuff.’

He knew better than anyone that it was expensive, but he couldn’t buy it anyway. 5 gold? He would rather use that money as capital to sell other items. Seeing the general store owner handing over the map to Leeha, bob felt excited. And at the same time, he admired the young man.

The young man in front of him was discerning, knew how to bargain, and was… very unusual. Such a person shouldn’t ever be looked down upon. Bob thought that he needed to think long-term and form a collaborative relationship with this young man in front of him.

“Can I call you Ha Leeha-nim?”

When the owner of the general store left for a short break, bob said in a very polite manner.

“Yes, you can speak comfortably.”

Bob’s eyes were pointing towards the map held by Leeha.

“Your bargaining skills are really great. I learned a lot.”

“Aigoo, I have a knack for it. And, please take care of me in the future for when I need gunpowder and bullets.”

Leeha spoke more politely than Bob.

Bob replied to Leeha with his twinkling eyes.

“Sure. You won’t ever have to worry about gunpowder in the future. The gunpowder I sell is made by the best artisan in the kingdom.”

“You know the best artisan in the kingdom? Whoa, that’s incredible. Can I get an introduction?”

“Haha, that’s a trade secret.”

Looking at Bob’s laughter, Leeha could see that this NPC wasn’t normal. He probably was concerned about ‘directly dealing’ with the craftsman, and Leeha going right through him. Bob surely wanted a connection with Leeha, and didn’t want to waste the opportunity.

“I know what you’re thinking about. Even if I meet him, I will still do business with Bob-nim. However, I think there is something that can improve its performance in the future.”

“Oh, in that way… I can introduce you, but it will be difficult right now..”

Bob laughed with Leeha.

“Haha, I see. Then, give me only 60 sets of gunpowder and iron balls. Oh, I’m leaving for the capital soon; where and how can I get to you?”

“You can use the common bank safe. If you open a safe with the account in your name, you can always buy the amount you want. Of course, there must be a bank.”

Leeha knew that it was possible not only to entrust money but also to exchange goods. However, it was a common safe, did it really have such a function?

“And what about the payment?”

“Put it in the safe and I can find it. You can write down the items you need and I can get them for you.”

“Ah… It’s almost like paying online. But, what if I don’t put it in?”

“Haha, how would I be able to work without that much trust for clients?”

Bob just laughed. Leeha liked Bob’s attitude. The disadvantage of no putting in money would be a reduction of intimacy, not to mention the infamy you would receive! He really did look like an expert in Leeha’s eyes.

“Okay. 4 copper for gunpowder, and 1 copper for iron balls. I will use it well.”

“Good. Let’s go to the bank. When opening up a transaction, both parties must go together.”

Leeha felt good when he met a decent merchant, while he was dealing with the general store owner. Maybe the general store owner was the reason why there were no musketeers in Candle Castle? Leeha suddenly thought that way.

‘Now, I bought gunpowder, and I opened a bank account. Am I done now?’

Leeha was alone in front of the banks of Candle Castle. Bob said he would like to meet him again in the future and left.

‘The bank doesn’t even give you a separate quest… It could be said that it is the end of the day. It means that I have taken care of all the small things I can do at Candle Castle.’ It was now time to leave Candle Castle. It wasn’t long before Leeha’s steps became a bit heavy.

The place where he felt free, the town where he first arrived in Middle Earth. In a sense, it was like another hometown. In addition to the strange fear and anticipation of having to go to a new place, there were also practical reasons.

‘Above all, my level is still 12. If it were a normal user, they would hunt until level 15, but… I have to leave already..’

Madame Lu’s quest and Musket Academy were all in the capital.

‘Let’s go to the capital and meet Kijung.’

Knowing much more about Middle Earth than Leeha, meeting Kijung would surely help him.

“This is good!”

Leeha energized himself and pulled out the map. He learned how to use the map from Bob, but the fastest way was to use it directly.

‘But the map is really… It’s amazing, it’s amazing…

When he heard that it was 500,000 won in reality, he thought it was too expensive, but it was worth far more than a mere 500,000 won.

‘It was named a map, but in fact, it is a GPS navigation!’

When he picked up the map and turned, a small triangle on the map turned the direction. It could even expand and contract like a smartphone map. Since all the revealed areas within the borders of the Fibiel Kingdom were marked, the question was how he would look at a map of such scale…

‘Because it expands and contracts… He can also use only the part where he currently is by expanding the radius. When making the overall movement, you can zoom out and look at the whole area.’

The function was the same as the map on a smartphone, but the shape and content were the same as the old map. The colors, topography, and landmarks were a perfect mid-century. In addition to such marks, contours were drawn on mountains and hills, so it was a little dizzy for the general public to read right away.

‘Compared to studying Dokdo law at the NCO’s school… This is like a questionnaire with an answer sheet.’

The most important thing for a sniper was location selection, how to read a map, and how to read the ‘Dokdo method’, which he learned so hard that he could do it in his sleep.

‘It’s so good, why not use it?’

Of course, the average users of Middle Earth rarely used maps, but it was because the maps were expensive.

In fact, there was a point that Leeha overlooked, but in general, even if the military had learned the Dokdo method, it was not used for looking at a map.

In addition, at low levels, it was better to change weapons than to buy a map, and at higher levels, it was better to move using a horse carriage or to move using magic scrolls such as teleport, warp, or gate, so there was no need for a map.

‘Now, shall we go?’

Leeha, after roughly setting the way to Aelstock, put the map in his bag. In the bag, a map, 100 sets of gunpowder and bullets, 3 pieces of bread, and a lunch box to be delivered to Madame Joo.

He only had 27 copper left.

‘I can hunt for food! I need to use the skills I learned after getting cursed at.’

The small arrow on the map flashed, flickered, and started to move out of the area of the Candle Castle.

(To be continued…)
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After leaving the gate, he ran for at least three hours without a break. Hills and slopes gradually appeared and a dense forest could be seen everywhere. The area where bears and snakes appeared definitely had a different kind of atmosphere.

‘Doesn’t it mean that first-class monsters will appear from now on?’

However, Leeha did not worry about it that much. There were roads that connected different villages. In other words, he would be safe as long as he followed the road. Animals also had intelligence, and they would not come near the path where a lot of humans pass by.

“I pulled the Brown bear! Be careful of green snakes appearing around you while tanking!”

“Have an antidote ready! Blah, blah.”

“Hmm?”

There was a noisy party on top of the hill. Leeha heard a strange skill name. The man, a tanker, was fighting with shields in both arms without any weapon.

‘There really are all kinds of jobs.’

The person who pulled the monster was probably an archer. There was a spear user, a swordsman, and a user with a rosary around his wrist.

‘As expected, there are no magic dealers.’

Bears are one of the most popular hunting grounds because magic or long-distance dealers do not have good compatibility with them.

Kkuoh, Kkuoh!

The size of the Brown bear that appeared beyond the bush was larger than expected.

‘Originally, a bear is big but…

Bears in the zoo were threatening, but what about wild bears, especially in middle earth?! Of course, they would not put in a regular-sized bear. If bears in reality are the size of a car, that one was 1.5 times larger than that. Almost van level!

‘If you look closely, it would look like its body is trembling… The way they fight looks good.

Fighting against a bear the size of a van while using a spear or sword. The words “melee fight” and “bloody battle” really fit together.

The party should be on the appropriate level, but it looked like the 5 of them were having a hard time hunting the bear.

“If you poke it like that, the sword or spear will bounce off… What’s more, the range dealer does not deal any damage.”

In the first place, he was only there to draw aggro, and the ones to deal real damage are the melee users.


‘It has nothing to do with me anyway.’

Leeha turned his head back on the road. Not only is his level not high enough, but he was also not interested in bears at all. His plan is to go to the Musket Academy, learn skills, and level up in the forest where spiders and bats appear.

‘Currently, there is only one skill I can use for attacking. When I arrive at the academy, I will focus on replacing my weapon and acquiring new skills.’

He needed to learn at least one attack skill.

Runner’s high is for running, and bayonet charge is for emergency and could not be considered a combat skill.

What about weapons? He was still using the low-level, crude musket he received from his job change. Candle Castle sold weapons for low-level players in line with the graduation quest, the Golden Eagle, but Leeha could not afford one.

‘What kind of weapon could a person who didn’t have enough money to buy gunpowder buy? When others bought the next level of swords, shields, and staffs, he was saving for the rainy season.

He heard rumors that there was a quest that gave a weapon, among the quests when you go to the academy. Not many people go to Musket academy, but if the academies of all professions are similar, then, wouldn’t there be a weapon quest as well? That was what Leeha believed.

“Uwaaak! It’s a Brown Bear!”

Runaway, fast! We’ll die if we get caught!”

The forest suddenly became noisy. Several parties who were hunting began to rush out of the forest.

They have horrified expressions while running in a hurry.

“What? Brown Bear?”

The hunting ground quickly turned into pandemonium. Among the escaping people, some of them gathered together.

“Let’s catch the Brown Bear. Brown Bear! .

We’re creating a raid! There must be at least 4 parties to catch the field boss!”

People who turned a crisis into an opportunity.

It was a very confident voice. Of course, he must have some knowledge of the Brown Bear. One by one, those who had run away flocked around him.

“Gather around! Let’s go at once!”

The man holding the shield in both hands shouted confidently.


Raid. A huge group of people consisting of at least four parties with five people in each party. With the appearance of such a huge number of people grouping together, the eyes of the escaping people changed.

If they gathered enough people, then they could catch it! Their eyes gave the feeling that they were able to do it.

“Come! Join us now!

Our party has three dealers and two tankers!”

“Let us join too! Two melee DPS, one long-ranged DPS, one tanker, and one healer!”

“We have two healers, take us too!”

“Wow, it’s my first time seeing a field boss. Can we join as well?”

However, Leeha focused on a different word than the word “raid”.

‘Field Boss?’

Leeha looked in the direction from which people came from. No monsters were visible yet, but some corpses could be seen near the entrance to the forest.

‘Of course, it would be much stronger than a normal bear.’

A “Field Boss” is a monster with an unspecified spawning location and is one of the good(?) monsters that drop equipment items that are hard to get in Middle Earth.

Regardless of the type of monster, a field boss will drop equipment unconditionally, so it is extremely welcome if you have the ability to catch it.

“I’m the party leader, Petal Kim, send your application to me! We already have three parties now, and we need at least four parties!”

His nickname didn’t really suit him as he had a shield on both hands. The two shields were rustling like petals.

‘He must have quite a bit of knowledge of Middle Earth…

Having found a tanker-like job with two shields and predicting the possibility of hunting field bosses, Leeha was curious about the user named Petal Kim.

Although it was a long way from the capital, it was not easy to see the field boss. Its spawn time and location is completely unpredictable.

With this opportunity, he thought that it would be helpful to see the raid composition and hunting method.

“I-It’s coming! All of the tanks forward!”


“Healers, don’t focus on your party members, please heal accordingly! Starting with the priest with the hat, cast one by one. Please adjust it so that the heal is not wasted!”

Six tanks stood in front, followed by melee dealers, one crossbow and one longbow archer at the back, followed by four healers.

A raid with 20 people in total.

For an impromptu party, the composition of the raid is quite good.

“It’s coming! It’s coming!”

Did the archer with a longbow see the Brown Bear?

He hurriedly drew and shot an arrow.

Kuaaaaa—— “Hmm? This sound…?”

It was the roar of a bear that made the air tremble. Leeha saw it. Even after hearing the roar, the flock of birds flying from the forest flapped their wings. What the hell is a Brown Bear…

“Drag its aggro! More!”

When all kinds of tankers’ aggro skills, such as stomp, provoke, and taunt, are activated, footsteps began to resonate in the forest.

Kuung, Kuung.

“Get back, get back! Pull it out to the meadow for dealers to have a clear vision!”

Kuaaaa——

With a shout, the raid team withdrew slowly and the sound of trees collapsing could be heard.

The trees are falling? Wouldn’t it mean that it’s big?

‘That’s crazy… Could you even call that a bear?’

The average bear monster was the size of a van. But what about the field boss Brown Bear?

It was the size of an elephant. Maybe a little bigger than the little elephant in the zoo.

“Tanks don’t back down!”

Don’t back down.

How courageous of him to say that. Leeha had boundless respect for tanker-based users.

An elephant-sized Brown Bear, knocking down trees, revealed itself into the meadow.

“Woah…That… It’s walking on all fours…

It was as big as an elephant when walking on all fours, how tall would it be if it ‘stood up’.

Kuaaaaa—

『Agonia Oso used Roar.』 『You are in the state of ‘Fear’』 『You won’t be able to move for two minutes.』

『Total HP is reduced by 10%.』

『Stamina is reduced to 30% or less.』

“What is this? It’s crazy! Why did I get affected?”

Leeha roughly estimated that the distance between him and the Field Boss Brown Bear was around 70m.

However, even at such a far distance, he was affected by the abnormal status effect?

Considering that the magic range is usually 55m give or take, the effect of the roar is enormously wide.

However, instead of feeling flustered that his body was not able to move, or admiring the wide range of the field boss’s skill, he felt angry.

‘Damned bear bastard, this fucking feeling… Because he was not able to move his body freely in reality, he enjoyed the freedom he got in Middle Earth more than anything else, but in a roaring room, he felt that way again!

“Uwaaak! P-prioritize me! Cleanse me first! Healer!”

“Me too! The bear is looking at me! Fast!”

When Leeha stared at the bear with cold eyes, several users in fear were screaming like crazy, flustered and scared.

The Brown Bear was massive enough that they were afraid to face it. How much more would they feel when they are paralyzed while facing such a monster. It was natural to panic!

The tankers and dealers are scrambling to get cleansed first.

The unity of the raid, which looked great just before, was cracked in one roar.

“Hoo-wook, I can resist three hits, so prepare the tanks right away! Please turn its aggro! Cleanse the status abnormalities in the order of healer, tank, and dealer!”

Shouted the two shield users.

Petal Kim took a step. Maybe he was trying to show how to be a leader?

Of course, there was no such thing as touching the Brown bear by Petal Kim’s actions. Kwaaang, the huge forefoot bent down like a whip.

“High Guard!”

Pit, two shields wrapped in blue light.

Kwaahang-!

Dust and torn grass scattered in the air. An attack strong enough to generate a shock wave. A huge claw mark was left on the shield, but he stood still.

While absorbing the attack of the giant Brown bear as it is.

“B-Blocked?”

“Amazing! The party leader is awesome!!”

“I can do it, hurry up!”

“Kyuoh!”

“Okay, it’s removed!”

Magic that canceled an abnormal status that was activated in time. Blocking the Brown bear’s attack and holding up the leader and canceling the status abnormality increased the morale of the raid.

“Penta-Stab!”

“Spin Crash!”

“Starfall!”

After two or three steps of the tanks, the dealers attacked the Brown bear and randomly used their skills.

A sword stabbing the bear five times in a row, a lancer sticking a rotating spear blade into its belly button, and a morning star slamming a glowing bear’s paws. The tankers managed the aggro at the right moment whenever the dealers deal too much damage.

(To be continued…)
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“Ho… They are better than I expected.”

Leeha, who was spectating from 70m away, saw their situation.

As he watched the fight for a long time, the fear effect was naturally removed.

The tankers alternately blocked the bear’s attack. The dealers continued to find opportunities between the gaps made by the bear.

Even if they get the aggro, they were warrior-type dealers, which meant, they wouldn’t die in a single hit. Healing magic poured out like rain, and it was enough to fill their health bar in an instant.

‘If it’s like this, they should be able to catch it.’

With a relatively smooth flow, blood flowed from all over the Brown bear field boss, the Agonia Oso’s, body.

The bear’s hand smashed on the shield, leaving a huge nail mark on it, and dug up the ground.

The fierce battle was not easy, but as time passed, the scale of victory seemed to tilt toward the raid team.

“At 20%, we have to pour our attack all at once!” Petal Kim yelled.

“Why?”

The raid team was rather confused as Petal Kim exclaimed with an urgent expression.

“When its HP reaches 20%, it will roar a second time. Then it will become dangerous. So before that happens, we have to catch it in one go.”

“Ah, but isn’t it just a status condition? It is almost caught anyway, I think we could take it slow. It’s the first field boss, so it’s also being recorded.”

“Kuku, I mean. Wouldn’t it be worth some money if we uploaded this on the internet? ‘How to hunt a field boss for dummies! For users below level 100!’ we can upload it with that title.”

People who wanted to take advantage of not hunting rather than hunting.

“Oh, I think I used too much heal. I need to recover my MP.”

“What? Why are you sitting down?”

“The raid is almost done, so what am I going to do? I have to sit down to recover.”

The raid members had reduced their efficiency by using random skills.


“Hey! Tank properly! Why didn’t you use provoke?”

“I think my shield’s durability has been reduced a lot…”

“Who cares about your shield’s durability?

Use it quickly!”

“I’ll use it next time. This time, you use it.”

“Oh shit, that’s too much!!”

“Oh, did you even swear that you took an hour off?”

“Use it quickly, damn it!”

Laziness and selfishness spread to everyone in the raid… It could be said that this was the limit of an improvised raid team. Everyone had already started to pay attention only to their own self-interests.

The attacks missed and the aggro was not getting controlled properly.

As for the injuries, the MP of the healers fell to a level where it was impossible to recover.

“I-I can’t. That’s why I’m not partying with those low levels. You should listen to the raid leader! When it comes to timing, it’s like spinning a web!”

And there was no way the raid leader couldn’t detect this change of mood. Petal Kim looked around and bit his teeth.

“What is it? What is that sudden sound, Petal-nim? What is that sound?”

The moment when Petal Kim overlapped his two shields to prevent another hit, with a chaenggrang sound, one shield split in half.

A much stronger hit than normal.

But that’s not the problem. Petal Kim knew that when its HP reached 20%, the field boss, agonia Oso’s last struggle would begin.

“It’s here! 20%!”

Kwaaaaa—!!!

‘Uh, will it roar again? No, wait. What is that light…’


The tip of its nails lit up first.

Even Leeha, who was far away, saw the Brown bear’s toes spark. Did it reflect the sunlight because it is sharp?

“What…”

That wasn’t it. The field boss’s pattern changed… Agonia Oso began to turn red.

Its dark red fur completely turned red mixed with a yellowish tint.

And it wasn’t just a color change.

“Aak, it’s hot! What the-? This bear can use magic?”

“I-it’s not magic…

“Brown(Mul) Bear(Kom)! Bear(Kom)! Fire(Mul)! Fire(Mul), bear(Kom)!”

“Disband Party! Tsk!”

Petal Kim threw the broken shield and ran back. The dealer and healer, who was in Petal Kim’s party, also pulled out.

All of a sudden, argonia Oso’s whole body was on fire.

Kuwaaaaaa—!!!

Leeha also thought it used flame magic.

The guy who was fine suddenly caught fire and cried out.

However, seeing Petal Kim’s attitude and the sudden change of the Brown bear’s attack pattern, he realized that he had been mistaken.

Krung, krung! He swung both of his arms to put out the fire but it was useless. A user holding a shield got flattened like a pancake after getting smashed by the Fire Bear.

Chwaah, the scattered blood evaporated before it even touched the ground. It was hard to see how the user turned into light particles.

“E-escape, escape quickly!”

“Uwaaak! Help me! Heal, heal!”


However, in order to cast the heal, the healer must not move. In the midst of the dealer and tank scattering away, they were asking the healer to stop and cast heal? That was absurd.

“What… What is this… Can you even call that a bear?”

Yes, it’s not just a beast. This place is Middle Earth.

The field boss is definitely a “monster”. It didn’t cross his mind because the field boss was huge.

Leeha stared at the humongous field boss, the Fire Bear Agonia Oso, opening its mouth widely toward the fleeing people.

A bright light gathered in its mouth as its body was burning, and there was an image of light gathering, the image that he had seen several times.

‘Casting? Monster-’

Paaaa!!!

The Brown bear vomited a fireball. It wasn’t a fireball refined like a fireball. The instinctive, randomly burning fireball burned up two running dealers in no time.

“Kiyaaaak! Hot! It’s hot!”

“Kuoo- somebody sav-”

His voice was cut off.

Two dealers turned into grey light. What percentage was the assimilation rate set?

If they remember that pain, they won’t be able to access Middle Earth for more than 48 hours.

“Hey! What are you doing, run away quickly!”

A group was running towards Leeha who was looking at the river like flames, it was Petal Kim, who was the raid leader, along with his party members.

“Me?”

Leeha was confused at the words of Petal Kim, advising him to run away as well. I didn’t even attack, why should I?

“When Agonia Oso is in that state, it will run wild for a few days! It kills all visible things, so you’ll have to go to another hunting ground for the time being.”

“What? Few days? How many days exactly?”

Runaway? If they wanted to catch it, they should have definitely caught it. It would be a nuisance if they let it run wild like that.

If they didn’t have the confidence to catch it, they shouldn’t have touched it. Petal Kim, who organized the raid, was resentful.

“I do not know. Ten days if it’s short, one month if it’s long? Anyway, it would be better not to come this way until you hear the news that the Brown bear was caught. We are going!”

After giving advice quickly, Petal Kim ran back to the nearby village with his party members. Leeha alternated between Petal Kim and the Agonia Oso, standing still and moving away.

‘Ten days even if it’s short? A month if it’s long? If I run away right now, I won’t be able to use this road for about a month? What a nuisance! And then they just ran away?’

Once the lid is opened, you have to kill the field boss.

The Brown bear will eat, rip, and burn all nearby users until its rampage is released.

‘Damn you guys… Do I have to wait for the high levels to come and finish the hunt? Or should I get a new raid team and hunt it?’

Even if I don’t go back to Candle Castle, there is a small town nearby.

What if I recruited another raid team from there?

‘No. It was possible if it was in its first phase, but now I… I won’t be able to gather 20 people…’

According to Petal Kim, it should have been killed in an instant, just before the transformation.

If it’s in its second phase a raid team with 5 parties won’t be enough. You might need to gather 6-7 parties to raid it.

‘I don’t know how many users there are in that town, so I can’t move around. I might just go to town for no reason and miss the chance to run away. Wouldn’t it be better to run down the road and head for the capital right now? However, given the size and speed of the Brown bear, I could be caught while running away.

‘That Petal Kim or whatever is a son of a b*tch! Making it rampage like this!’

He was the reason for Leeha’s unexpected delay, who has to go to the capital right away.

If he gets delayed by ten days, he would not be able to satisfy Madame Lu’s quest conditions.

‘I can’t wait that long.’

It is uncertain that a raid team will be gathered, and it is also uncertain that high levels will come and take care of it. If I run away halfheartedly, I might get eaten.

If I have to give up all three options, there is only one left.

‘Then I’d rather…’

‘I don’t know if it will work or not. However, I can’t avoid it without even trying. Avoiding here is like giving up on the quest halfway.’

‘In that case, I would rather be prepared to die…’

“Kkuwaaak!”

In the meantime, a healer flew into the air.

The body got thrown at least 10m into the air after getting hit by the Agonia Oso.

The moment he landed on the ground, will be an instant death judgment.

“Umm, the Field Boss…”

Leeha bit the bag of gunpowder..

Six of the 20 people had died.

When they first started, Petal Kim’s party was stable, but after that, the remaining nine were running away for their lives. However, given the current circumstances, even half of them will not survive.

The bear’s running speed was surprisingly fast, but since it was the size of an elephant, it was catching up one person at a time.

‘The distance is about 70m.’

However, the Brown bear was also quite agitated by running all over the place.

“Tap!’

Leeha tapped the musket’s butt on the floor with a sound.

Loading in one go just by putting gunpowder and iron balls in the muzzle and hitting the floor. Leeha lifted his musket.

‘The distance is 70m, and the wind is roughly 2m per second. The direction is southeast…’

With a map and a compass, he can accurately determine the current location of the bear. The wind direction and wind speed can also be measured thanks to the smoke rising from the ground where the fireball exploded.

‘They said it had about 20% of its life left. Even if it is a field boss, a field boss of the level of a bear hunting ground. If it is 20%, it will not have very much stamina.

A distance of 70m and windspeed speed of about 2m per second do not have a significant effect on trajectory.

‘Calm heart.’

Leeha’s fingers were light.

‘Okay, three…’

His shoulders were steady.

‘Two…’

The direction he is aiming for is clear.

‘One…’

Ta-aang—.

White smoke appeared on the grasslands along with a loud noise.

Puuk, Leeha saw the Agonia Oso’s giant head tilt back.

(To be continued…)
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“Impact, there’s an impact!”

“Run! Don’t talk!”

“No, look! Didn’t someone shoot?”

“What do you mean shoot? What the-? No, someone shot it? Oh!” And then they realized… they heard a loud bang…

Petal Kim and his party members stopped. It was a distance away, but the sound and smoke were clearly visible.

‘What is it? Was that person a musketeer?’

Whether it was a rod or a spear. They didn’t see the weapon properly.

However, hearing the gunshots, and smoke, they could guess the job of the person.

‘If he was a musketeer, they would have asked him to join the party…’

Unlike other ranged dealers, musketeers had the highest attack power in a single shot. It’s almost useless if it was not like this.

Petal Kim hesitated, but he was still skeptical.

The raid team had already been disbanded, and there were too many dead users.

‘And then he came? If I use that guy, will I be able to catch it?’

The spark of hope was on the verge of extinguishing. There was still some expectation left.

“W-where did he shoot? Did it hit?”

“The head! I guess it hit! The Brown bear is wandering around now!” The user with a spear exclaimed with excitement.

“Amazing. How did he hit it in the head? Do guns have long-range originally?”

“N-no! Did it hit the head? Did you see it properly? Isn’t the musket’s accuracy terrible?”

“I saw it clearly. Because the Brown bear’s head leaned back. Isn’t it a critical hit if it got hit in the head? If we work together with that person, shouldn’t we be able to catch it?”

The other party members had somewhat excited expressions on their faces.


Even if that musketeer user succeeded in hunting, the distribution of rewards depended on the degree of contribution. They would certainly be given a chance to get some items and experience points.

However, Petal Kim’s expression was dark.

“Don’t speak nonsense and run.”

“It was shot in the head.”

“Ah, yes. Incredible. He was lucky enough to miraculously pull that off. But that’s it.”

Petal Kim shook his head and turned back.

“What? Why?”

“Musketeers take 2 minutes to reload.”

“Huh? 2 minutes?”

“Yeah! So, to shoot again…”

Waaaahh—!!!

At that moment, agonia Oso roared again.

“Let’s run!”

Petal Kim also saw it. The Musketeer user flinched and stopped in place. What was the end of a Musketeer who was in the abnormal status of “fear”? It would be good for your mental health not to see it.

『Agonia Oso used ‘Roar’.』 『You are in a state of ‘Fear.’』

『You cannot move for 2 minutes.』

『Total HP is reduced by 10%.』

『The stamina is reduced to less than 30%.』

“Huh?”

Is this right? Did it hit the head properly? It’s outside of 70m, but he could tell. The figure of a bear tilting its head, a certain sense of hitting it.


Yes, it got it. So?

Leeha’s bullet hit the Giant Brown Bear, the Agonia Oso’s head, however, it was an attack that could not cause instakill.

The overconfidence that Leeha felt immediately melted away.

He expected that hitting it in the head would trigger an instakill.

It was all just Leeha’s pride. The Brown Bear is said to be the strongest field boss in the low-level zone. In the first place, it wasn’t a monster that a level 12 user could catch.

‘Even if it wasn’t an instakill, didn’t it deal huge damage? It didn’t? Is the field boss that strong?’

Another point he overlooked was that the hardest bone of a bear was the skull. In fact, bear hunters didn’t target their heads.

In other words, Leeha’s bullet penetrated the tough skin and touched the bone, however it did not pierce the bone. And now he had to pay the price of overconfidence and pride.

“Damn, I need to reload quickly.”

His body couldn’t move. Paralysis caused by fear for a whopping 2 minutes. It was enough time for a burning bear the size of an elephant to traverse 70m.

“Help! The shield party from before! Did you say you were Petal Kim? Are you watching right now? I can deal damage! If you can pull its aggro!”

Leeha shouted without even turning his head.

Although it was only at the level of passing each other, he thought that Petal Kim should have seen how he hit the Brown bear.

And if he saw it? He would know that the attack worked, wouldn’t they join forces with Leeha and try to hunt that Brown bear again?

However, no response was heard.

Kuuung–!

Could it be said that he was grateful for his misfortune?

The Brown bear couldn’t find who shot it, so he was still alive.

However, the bear’s rampage, which had become more violent due to the pain it felt in its head, made the viewer feel numb.

“Oh, ah ah ah!”


“Why is that damned bear so fast! Save m-”

“Q-q-quick! My arm is torn, aakk!”

If they had known that the Fear effect would double when they turned their back on the Agonia Oso, they would have faced it head-on.

The paralyzed raid members were ripped, torn, burned, and forcibly logged out.

Five users suffered from paralysis for two minutes.

Now there were only four users left.

‘It must have been attracted to my aggro already, and I can’t run away against that speed. If it goes like this…’

Leeha immediately reloaded. The first shot was filled with arrogance, but what about the second shot? Will he be able to survive even if he put bullets in the bear’s head?

His reload speed was faster than ever.

‘Don’t be nervous. It’s okay. Isn’t it just dying?’

Dying was scary, however, Leeha composed himself and lifted his musket once again. The bear that pursued him ran while digging through the ground with a kududuk sound.

With its huge size, there were a lot of places that could be hit.

However, there was only one place that Leeha was aiming for.

“Haa, haa.”

A drop of sweat tickled his eyebrows.

Taaang—!

The sound of the gun stopped the running users in their tracks.

“Again! He hit it again!”

Looking back, the lancer expressed his admiration and implied something to Petal Kim.

He didn’t say it, however, there was an unspoken pressure to keep watching. Of course, he wasn’t thinking of wanting to get Leeha.

It was a judgment based on the idea that if he did well, he could share his profits with them.

“The second shot also hit the head!”

“Wow, this is my first time seeing a dealer like that. I am recording the hunt, I can get some pocket money if I upload this on the internet.

“By the way, how did he do it? It’s also interesting that he could shoot a musket from far away, and both hit accurately. Crossbows aren’t that accurate either.”

The bear’s head tilted and blood could even be seen splattering. The bleeding was severe. Perhaps, it was severe enough that there was a possibility of it dying.

However, the Argonia Oso was making another victim while going berserk.

“Party Leader-nim, are we not really going to help? He hit it in the head twice! We just have to go and finish it!”

“Haa… Do you think we can catch it if we go?”

“What?”

It’s not like Petal Kim didn’t know what the party members were thinking, or that he wasn’t getting greedy. He knew how good the leather items of Agonia Oso were.

“Right now the surrounding users are acting as shields, while that person shoots. There are only three users left now. If all of them die, then it is the Musketeer’s turn to die.

“So before that, we just have to help out! You should be able to tan-”

“You make it sound easy.”

Petal Kim’s voice was cold.

“Oh, t-that, you see…”

It was only then that Lancer noticed. Whose shield was broken by Agonia Oso’s attack? Who was the first to stop the attack and throw it away?

Lancer himself dodged and avoided it, so he did not know.

“I set the assimilation rate to 40%, trying to stop it well. Who has a higher assimilation than me?”

Petal Kim said quietly, but his party member knew what he meant.

“If we intervene now, should I die first? We just need to catch it before its flames activate, but it’s already activated… It could be said that the level of difficulty has increased from the start. But you want to catch it by ourselves, when we failed even with 20 people? I have a completely broken shield right now, and if I break another item here, who will pay for it?”

No one could answer.

“Let’s go back quickly. I’m sorry for that Musketeer, but let’s go back and organize another raid again. More organized this time.”

“Then, we will abandon that user and go to the village?”

“I gave him advice earlier. It’s his fault for not running away and shooting instead.”

Petal Kim was cold, but he made a clear decision.

‘It’s amazing that his accuracy rate is high, but he is low level. It is already too late to help him.

‘But how did he manage to hit it? That’s interesting.’

Petal Kim and the party members saw how amazing the musketeer was.

“Ah… The Brown bear bastard spewed fire. The last user died. The Brown bear is approaching the musketeer now.”

“Uh, uh, run away. I think he gave up in the end.”

“If he runs away, he can’t reload, right?”

“Yeah. Now, that person will die as well. Leeha was running away without lifting his gun. And the giant Brown Bear chased after Leeha. Now, Petal Kim and his party members were able to predict Leeha’s end. It was just a waste of time to watch any more of this.

“Let’s go! That person will die anyway, so let’s go!”

“Okay. We’ll come back and catch it.”

The Lancer also turned around.

“Run quickly! If we run to the village at full speed, we can fight with that bastard again within an hour as long as the users gather in the village within 30 minutes.”

“Let’s go, let’s go!”

Petal Kim’s party members headed to the village like they had already caught Agonia Oso.

Anyway, it was because all their party members were alive, and thanks to the musketeer, the giant Brown Bear was now in the state of near death.

If they went to the village and gathered a small group of people, they would be able to attack this time.

‘Musketeer’s equipment and money… Kuk Kuk. It can’t be helped. Life is all about timing.’

They would arrive at the village by the time their stamina had dropped thrice.

“Is it really a Brown Bear?”

“Can’t you see the screenshot? We confirmed the location of the Brown bear. We failed because we only had 20 people before, but this time it will be unconditionally successful. Ask our Party Leader.”

“Is it real?”

The doubtful users’ eyes turned to Petal Kim.

What did he have to say? Judging that it would be better to show it, Petal Kim raised his shield with the bear’s nail marks deeply indented.

“Amazing… No, that’s the toenail marks? How could that be a toenail when it’s as wide as a person’s forearm?”

“It’s actually that big. Level 27 or higher! Stand in line quickly, we need one tanker, thirteen dealers, and five healers, first come first served! If you don’t follow the instructions, your party will be kicked out and you will be reported to the community blacklist.”

It took less than 5 minutes for Petal Kim’s party to gather 25 additional people.

Contrary to Leeha’s expectation, the number of users in the village used as an intermediate rest area was high.

“Let’s go! Don’t fall behind, and if a Brown bear appears, fight the way I said earlier!”

It wasn’t a roughly organized party. This time, Petal Kim’s original party members were also encouraging and teaching others how to hunt it.

A raid team with 30 people, adding to the original Petal Kim’s 5 party members.

Thirty users with a definite purpose started running while using their stamina generously.

About 30 minutes later, the raid team stood at the original location.

“Waa… Amazing.”

“The field boss looks like a field boss.”

“Crazy, look at this footprint. Amazing.”

The tragic traces remained intact. There were no corpses after more than an hour had passed, but the damaged terrain was not restored until the last raid users arrived.
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“By the way, where is the Brown Bear?”

“I guess it has killed all the users and left. Everyone, be careful. The Brown Bear is big, so you will see it immediately. If you find it, you need to inform the party unconditionally.”

At Petal Kim’s instruction, thirty people from the raid team began to search, spreading out slowly.

“Ah, I’m getting nervous. I want to catch it quickly and check the items.”

“Hahaha, even though there are 30 people, if it’s a field boss, we should still expect our experience to rise by at least 10%, right?”

They felt excitement and anticipation; the users who depended on each other for the attack were confident. It goes without saying that there was a tangible tension and excitement about dealing with a “boss-class” monster for the first time since the golden eagle.

However, they were not able to find the Brown Bear even when they were spread out across the forest until they were unable to see each other.

“Captain-nim?”

“Isn’t it very quiet around here? Is there really a bear the size of an elephant?”

“Didn’t you say it was around here? Why is there nothing at all?”

“Captain-nim! Where is the Brown bear?”

“Shhh! Everyone, keep quiet and keep looking for it. Anyway, the Field Boss will come out soon as it will keep wandering around here unless it dies.”

One hour.

Two hours.

Three hours.

Even after searching through the forest for three hours, they were not even able to find a Brown bear’s tail hair, let alone a Brown bear.

Annoyance mixed with dissatisfaction was beginning to be focused on Petal Kim and his original party members.

“You’re not scamming us, are you?”

“Fuck, did you gather us on purpose to prevent us from hunting?”

“Ah, we’ve been searching back and forth for 3 hours, and there’s nothing here!”


“What is this? Is it true that you saw a Brown Bear? Is this a scam?”

“

It was… here…

Petal Kim’s expression was distorted. Where did it go?

Dissatisfaction burned like flames among the members. Of course, the targets were, naturally, Petal Kim and his party members who had gathered the users. The raid group had prepared everything from their mindsets to equipment and items to capture the Brown Bear field boss, agonia Oso.

The problem was that there was no Brown Bear.

The responsibility for this matter fell on Petal Kim.

“How did it happen?”

“I do not know.”

“Maybe that musketeer was able to……

“No way! The Brown bear was already chasing him… and we saw the bastard run. He wouldn’t have been able to attack while moving. The bastard would have certainly died because it would take him more than 2 minutes to reload.”

At the statement of Petal Kim’s party members, he shook his head strongly. His voice was mixed with irritation. In Petal Kim’s opinion, it was impossible for the musketeer to catch the Brown bear.

“Anyway…

“Oh, don’t talk any more nonsense, just find the Brown bear! What kind of nonsense is that…”

When Petal Kim’s party started returning to the village…

In other words, when the last player in the raid was burned to death, and the Brown bear started approaching Leeha.

Leeha was reloading.

‘This is crazy, what kind of animal lives after getting its headshot twice. It’s a total scam!’

Is it because it is not an animal?

Leeha stared at the approaching Agonia Oso.


From a distance, it was amazing that it was the size of an elephant, but the pressure when it approached him was truly unimaginable.

“Calm down. Keep calm, Leeha.”

Leeha tried to calm himself down.

In the distance, Leeha saw Petal Kim’s party running away.

Ao, those bastards! It’s like those guys worked and left without doing any cleanup. Are there any other nuisances like them?

‘No, keep calm. I don’t have to think about them.’

Leeha tried to get rid of his distracting thoughts once again…It took a lot of concentration to do something for the first time.

Leeha had practiced reloading several times with the combat assistance system turned off, and trained over and over again while moving until now.

However, he did not need to use the mobile reload before!

‘It’s possible because I don’t use a ramrod. Just like I practiced.’

As he ran, he pushed the iron ball into the muzzle.

For horizontal stabilization, users had to insert the ramrod into the muzzle and to do so, the user must stop.

However, Leeha was different.

‘Because I was doing Tap Loading! I did not need a ramrod for horizontal stability!!’

After lifting the musket, he ran and struck the musket’s butt against the ground. Paak-! Thankfully, the gunpowder did not explode due to this degree of impact.

The gunpowder and bullets in the barrel had been stabilized by the moderate impact.

‘All right, reload complete!’

At the same time, Leeha turned around.

‘Where is that dog-like Brown bear-’

Kreung, Kreung.


The Brown bear was much faster than Leeha thought.

The moment he turned around while lifting his musket, the Agonia Oso had already approached him and raised its front paw.

And because of that, he felt his breathing stop in-game.

Fortunately, Leeha didn’t feel the full effects and only had a little trouble breathing properly because he had lowered the assimilation rate.

Anyway, he should be grateful for the low assimilation rate right now.

“First…”

I need to prepare my resolve.

Agonia Oso slammed its front paw.

Paak-!

He felt a hot searing pain in his chest. He flew into the air without knowing how his body rose.

“Kaak- kkeuk.”

Leeha’s body flew over 8m and then bounced and rolled over the ground.

‘The gun is my lover, it is my life!’ Thanks to this maxim he had learned thoroughly in the military, he did not let go of his musket even when he flew, however, his whole body was shocked.

It was a bad practice however, he stubbornly rolled with his musket.

“Peup, kuheok, kuheok, Kehek.”

He felt intense pain in his head and chest.

It was so painful that it felt like someone had beaten his chest continuously, and his head was spinning – unable to think straight.

No matter how strong the Brown bear’s attack was, his assimilation rate was only at 20%.

‘Haa, this…Doesn’t it hurt more than I thought?

‘Should I be glad that I didn’t die?’ But he couldn’t relax now.

Grrrr…

“Damn it! Where is it? Fricking bear bastard.”

His eyes couldn’t see well.

His vision had darkened enough to indicate that his HP was in the single digits.

In his dark red vision, he was not able to differentiate between the sky and earth, and he couldn’t even see the field boss the size of an elephant.

Hearing the sound made by the bear, Leeha was barely able to lift his musket, but that’s all.

He couldn’t aim properly with his blind eyes.

‘I can not see. No, but could I feel it.’

Agonia Oso did not make a sound as if it knew that Leeha was not able to see. He couldn’t even hear it walking.

It meant that the field boss thought of Leeha as a target that he needed to use all of his strength against in order to hunt, but it wasn’t favorable to Leeha at all.

‘Heat? Which direction?’

Didn’t it have a burning body?

However, he was not able to determine the direction properly with the numbed sense of touch caused by the assimilation rate of 20%. It just felt hot everywhere.

‘It is hot. If I hesitate and get hit by one more shot, I will surely die.’

If he didn’t shoot it right away, he would die.

‘But what if I shoot randomly and it misses?’

Even if he shot and missed, he would die.

The distance that he flew was 8m. It was a distance from which the Agonia Oso could attack again after taking only a few steps.

‘It should not have that much HP left.’

Leeha was able to gauge its state. He felt that the quick guy was struggling. Agonia Oso was clearly in a critical state as well.

‘I just need to shoot one more shot… … Where is it… Damn, I can’t even hear it.’

His eyes were blinded, his sense of touch dulled, and he couldn’t hear any sound.

But he felt it instinctively, that the Brown bear was slowly, but surely,

approaching him.

Leeha kept his musket close. Suddenly, a different thought came up as he took a standing posture.

‘Blind shooter… Is this cliched?’

When he thought about it, he laughed. Thinking like this even in the face of death.

“Kek. Why is this so fun?”

Krng?

At that moment, he heard the sound of the bear.

Behind his left ear. Did it want to attack him from behind?

“Haaat!”

Kuaaa—

Leeha jumped and turned around. Floating in the air, the musket’s muzzle turned in a smooth motion.

He had a hard time seeing, but it was clear that the Brown bear’s paws were swinging towards him.

“Calm mind!”

The skill he tried for the first time.

Will it work even when I didn’t practice it before? However, the effect of a 15% increase in accuracy and preventing shaking hands was beyond Leeha’s imagination.

He could feel the muscles in his armpits tighten.

The hardened forearm supported the musket firmly. When the floating muzzle stopped shaking, his index finger moved.

Taaang.

Kuooong, Kuooong “Kahk, Kuleok, Kuaaht, damn it!!”

Not dead!

The Agonia Oso did not die, it didn’t die even after it took the hit head-on.

Leeha was worried that he would die if he rolled even once on the floor with the small amount of HP he had, but he did not die.

But looking at his state, he should only have 1% HP left, maybe even less.

Now it is difficult to load. At least I was able to move earlier so I tried reloading while moving, but now I am not able to, and it’s almost impossible to reload a musket with your eyes covered, no matter how good your senses are.

‘I have to practice like this.

Can I measure the amount of gunpowder just by using the hand feel?’

Leeha reflected on himself, who thought that moving while reloading was enough. Will you accept death calmly?

It’s too wasteful to do that.

Kuaah, Kuaah!

He felt that this was different from the roar that it had used earlier. That sound was not a roar or a threat. It was groaning, the bear was screaming in pain.

It was not known where the third shot hit, but its condition should be serious. He shot it from close range, so it couldn’t have missed.

What if I was hit in the head? The field boss was hit thrice in the head.

‘Fucking… Looks like that bastard also has a limit.

Huuu, huuu!

The Agonia Oso breathed out. The sound was intermittently mixed with sputum. This meant that it had suffered severe damage to the extent that blood came out as it breathed out. Leeha knew it.

‘It’s a sound I’ve made a lot in the hospital.’

It is obvious that it is on the verge of dying, but I won’t be able to shoot.

I need to get the final hit that will lead to a fatal injury.

‘What should I do? Hit it with the butt? I could hunt a rabbit in two hits with it, but can I do that in this situation?’

With the musket’s butt?

There was something that suddenly came to his mind.

‘Use it only as a last resort, was it? That’s a great explanation. Surely in the end, there will be nothing else I could use?.’

His legs shook, but he stood upright.

A body that stood in the direction of the rumbling sound of the field boss. The 1.5m long musket held tightly with both his hands.

‘Just one shot will kill you. I need to sense it. I need to focus my senses.’

Leeha organized his breathing. The already hot heart remained as it is, and his head cooled down. He started running.

Tat, tat, tat.

“Please die, you damned Brown bear! I was just on my way to the capital!”

Kuaaaa–.

When he felt that he was within striking distance of the bear, Leeha supported the musket’s butt against his belly and stabilized it.

“Go, bayonet charge!!!”

The skill he learned when he changed his job. A musketeer’s last resort that he had never used. Intense blue light gathered under the muzzle. A mana bayonet gradually took shape. An instant skill that did not require casting time was activated.

(To be continued…)
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It converted 30% of Musket’s damage to melee damage for 15 seconds.

In addition, the musket could stab someone from a distance of 1.6m if all of its length was added up. At this level, it was similar to or more than the attack range of the Agonia Oso!

“Die, you bastard!!!!”

Puuuuk, Leeha clearly felt a sensation in his belly and hands that were holding the musket.

It was similar to the feeling of firmness when trying to forcefully cut raw pork belly, nevertheless, no matter how firm it is, it will still end up getting cut.

Kaaang…

Leeha’s eyes suddenly brightened.

『You leveled up.』

『You leveled up.』

『You leveled up.』

『Skill – Musket Mastery level has risen to 5.』

『Skill – Bayonet Charge level has risen to 3.』

Leveling up restored health to optimum condition.

White light covered Leeha’s body.

“Haa, haa… Job… done?”

He clearly saw it. A huge Brown bear with sparks still rising from its fur. Agonia Oso’s body was lying on the ground.

Seeing the body gradually turning gray, it must have died.

“Haha… hahahaha, what is this?”

Laughter escaped Leeha’s lips. Its belly was torn by the mana bayonet. When the blood from there turned gray, he realized it.

The hunt was successful. The bear that was called the fear of mages and ranged dealers. It wasn’t an ordinary bear but the field boss, the Brown Bear, agonia Oso.


“I caught it! Waah! What kind of power leveling is this?!”

What was with these tremendous rewards? He leveled up 9 times, and Musket Mastery and Bayonet Charge leveled up once and twice respectively!

The only party that was alive after all the raid members died, had already run away, which meant that the experience points were not shared.

As a result, he was the only one getting all the experience points.

“Fuhahah, is this what you call a steal? No, I don’t have anyone to share it with, so it is not a steal! I got it! Haha. I caught it!”

Even though he was a ranged dealer, he got a lot of health from achievement rewards.

Nevertheless, he would have died if he got hit one more time, but he didn’t give up and fought on. It wasn’t something other ranged dealers could do.

And a risk that no one would take.

『The Emperor of Solo Play (B+)』 Congratulations! You defeated an enemy with a difference of 50 levels or higher alone. A brilliant victory awaits you, who is determined to die in battle.

Reward: 15 stat points.

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『The Emperor of Solo Play』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.

Effect: 30 stat points.

〈Title: Fearless(C)〉 When you fight with the strong, you become stronger. Effect: Increases attack power by 10%, if there is 20 level difference or higher, the effect will be tripled.

“Amazing… Stat points…?”

The achievement was great as well.

One new title and two new achievements. Besides, one of his achievements was B+, and he even entered the Hall of Fame.

‘W-well, it’s impossible to defeat something with a 50 level difference alone.’

What is level 50? In Middle Earth where solos are close to impossible with only a 10 level difference.

It was obvious when looking at level 25 users creating a party in order to hunt Brown bears that were around level 35.


By the way, he caught it ‘alone’ with more than a 50 level difference.

If you thought about it carefully, you might even think that the rewards were too few. Still, he liked the way that it gave 15 bonus stat points instead of adding +3 to all stats.

If you were going to get the Emperor of Solo Play achievement, it would be better to get stats according to each job’s characteristics instead of getting an increase to all stats evenly.

Leeha stuck his tongue out for Goople’s meticulousness.

‘Besides, I am the first one, aren’t I? Hehe. What’s the title again? This is all mine.’

Damage increased by 10%.

It was a much better effect than raising strength and intelligence. To calculate the attack power, the weapon’s attack power was added to the threshold of the stats, and that was it. Anyway, just wearing that title meant that the total attack power was +10%.

‘If your agility is +1 or +2, your attack power will not be as much as 10%. If you think about it…’

It was better. Besides, it was 3 times as effective for opponents with 20 levels difference +30%?

‘It was the same at the time of Black Angus, and only the attack power of the musket was taken, but the 10 level difference was sufficiently balanced out. The 20 level difference was a bit scary, but it’s okay. Hehe, I just like everything!!’

Titles, achievements, and the Hall of Fame were good, but most importantly, the instinctive pleasure that made Leeha thrilled was the joy of living, the joy of a successful hunt.

Above all, the joy that his judgment was right.

Leeha read the notification window of achievements and titles, his body vibrating with suppressed excitement.

And another joy came.

‘Ah, then how many stats do I have now?’

Originally, his stat points were less than his accumulated points. But what about after leveling up, including the achievements and the Hall of Fame?

“Character window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 21 (45%)

Title: Knows a little about weaknesses Achievement: 12 HP ： 750 / MP ： 175 Stats: Strength 35 (+25), agility 88 (+58), intelligence 30 (+20), constitution 32 (+22), mind 12 (+2).


Stat Points Remaining: 135. Leeha took a deep breath. By default, each stat started at 10. The situation where the abilities that were untouched were over 30.

‘But I still have 135 points left?’

15 and 30 additional achievements were due to the Hall of Fame. A total of 45 additions and 9 levels had been raised.

The character window was changed beyond what the following imagined.

‘I added almost 30 levels worth only with additional points such as achievements and food. Ha, really.’

What if he added up all the points he originally got from leveling up?

It is said that you can manage up to level 50 without any achievement.

‘I have to use it now. I will leave 15 points in case of an emergency, and use the remaining 120.’

Previously, he thought he could be at ease because he only hunted normal monsters, but now he had changed my mind. Even if it wasn’t a field boss, he didn’t know when and where something would happen.

He won’t take such chances anymore.

Leeha added 80 points in agility, 5 points each for strength and intelligence, and 30 points to constitution.

Now, his agility is 168.

And his Constitution is 62.

His HP rose from 750 to 1350 at once after adding points to constitution.

With that, his health was now only slightly lower than that of a tanker and higher than that of a melee dealer. How much more agility?

His job was a musketeer, a ranged dealer. In the area of destructive power, users on the same level won’t be able to hold a candle to Leeha.

And another reward came to mind.

“Waa… This is really crazy.”

Laughter escaped Leeha’s mouth. He got a lot of stats. However, when he thought about it he realized that he would also monopolize the items.

‘No, I haven’t gotten the items of Agonia Oso yet, but what is this?’

There were shiny items littered all over the ground. Of the 20 users, aside from the 5 users from Petal Kim’s party, 15 had died.

Among the ones who died, a lot of them dropped items. The probability of an item drop might be around 60%.

There were a whopping nine items worth between levels 20 and 30. Various weapons, armor, shoes, among other things. were swept into Leeha’s bag.

‘These must have been expensive. I would have struggled to buy these. I would have cried because it’s such a waste to buy it again.’

It would have been really bad.

Of course, he didn’t have the heart to give it back, but he had a big heart that felt empathy.

He giggled and hurried to gather the users’ items before they disappeared, and then stood in front of Agonia Oso. He checked the items dropped by the Field Boss.

‘Come out weapons, weapons, weapons!’

Hap.

『Excellent Flaming Bear’s Coat』

DEF: 115

Effect: Resistance to ‘Fear’ abnormal status +30%, stamina +4 Requirement: Strength 30, agility 50, constitution 70

Description: A warm coat made from the leather of Agonia Oso, the king of bears. It contains the warmth and heat that melts even the fear of freezing the blood. The subjects will bow to the king.

Additional effect: Set effect 3: Fire Resistance +30%

Set effect 4: Fire Resistance +40%

Set effect 5: Fire Resistance +50%

『Excellent Flaming Bear’s Boots』

DEF: 60

Effect: Resistance to abnormal ‘Fear’ +10%, agility +2, movement Speed +4%

Requirements: Agility 80

Description: Dark red leather boots. You are unstoppable while walking in tough and sturdy leather.

Additional effect: Set effect 3: Fire Resistance +30%

Set effect 4: Fire Resistance +40%

Set effect 5: Fire Resistance +50%

『Excellent Flaming Bear’s Hunting Cap』

Defense: 50

Effect: Resistance to ‘Fear’ abnormality +10%, agility +3 Requirement: Agility 100

Description: Dark red hunter’s cap. The short brim does not obstruct the view, so it is good to see from a distance.

Additional effect: Set effect 3: Fire Resistance +30%

Set effect 4: Fire Resistance +40%

Set effect 5: Fire Resistance +50%

‘All of them are excellent grade!’

It wasn’t the weapon that Leeha was wishing for, especially a Musket, but he felt relieved when he saw that the items were all excellent grade.

They had no level limit, but due to the nature of Middle Earth, they had stat restrictions. Leather armor was mainly used by melee dealers or ranged dealers.

Of course, unusual mages would increase strength or agility, but such people were rare.

‘What is its defense… The shoes have twice the defense of my current armor, doesn’t it? No, the hat alone has more defense than his current equipment… It was the armor that was exchanged for catching Black Angus. However, the difference between the grade of the items was bound to create a huge difference.

In addition, black Angus was a hidden boss of Candle Castle, but it was a much lower level monster compared to Agonia Oso.

‘First, I’ll add 8 points to the constitution stat.’

Leeha’s current constitution was 62 points. Adding 8 points out of the 15 left, his constitution reached 70. It satisfied the condition of wearing the coat, and with a single movement, he wore it like in the movies.

If it was a coat, you could wear it over clothes.

Users could wear cloaks on top of iron armors and coats on top of leather or cloth armor.

“Waa… It’s awesome.”

He could tell without looking at a mirror. The long coat that reached his calf was fitted perfectly to his body, making him look like a skilled hunter.

He changed the shoes he received at level 5 right away, so he looked completely different from a few hours before he left Candle Castle.

A leather coat with dark red bear fur on khaki leather armor. The pants were worn out, but the luxurious leather shoes were rather spirited that it gave a vintage look on the pants.

And the hunting cap gave Leeha sharp eyes.

Not only in appearance, it also added ability value and increased movement speed.

With this level of performance, it must be at least level 60 for a “normal” item and level 70 for a “crude” item.

In fact, Leeha did not know that it was only the defensive value that was similar, the additional effects were not included.

Furthermore, no one could even dream of something like the “additional set effect” of items that could only be obtained by catching the field boss.

“Haha. Hahahaha.”

Leeha could not stop the laughter that was leaking out of his mouth.

After equipping the items and grabbing the miscellaneous items, Leeha began to move.

‘It is now time to go to the capital. I’m lucky to have things go well on the first day.’

Wasn’t he lucky? Out of the hundred users who would encounter Leeha’s situation, 99 would have thought that they had the worst start…

Upon leaving for the capital, you met a Brown bear and died.

A 48-hour access penalty and a level-down. In reality, a 48-hour connection was a loss of 10 days in Middle Earth.

In addition, before the Brown bear could be hunted by someone, it will wander around, kill users, and prevent Leeha from going to the capital.

In fact, even though he should have been worried about the quest failure… Full of energy, Leeha sped up his pace while humming.

“The weather is nice~!”

(To be continued…)
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The Korean Internet community had gone wild.

『Title: To the user Petal Kim.』

If you return the armor that I dropped, I will forgive you. It was an improvised raid, but is it really okay that only your party members ran away and let the others die? Other users have already uploaded screenshots and videos, but anyway, everyone has selfish mistakes, so I won’t blame you. Please return the armor. I won’t ask for the items you got from the Brown bear.

-OXOX: Looking at the video, it seemed like the 5 people waited for the right moment. … And what would be the reason?

What the heck! Then, did they do it on purpose to let the other raid members die?

-100: Yeah, they ran away and came back later, and it seemed like they kept the Brown Bear for themselves.

– They’re all shit.

『Title: Attached Evidence: Petal Kim recruited another raid team from O-Renu Village!』

I am one of the members that participated in a 30-person raid team. At most, I went and searched, but there were no items belonging to the users who had died before, let alone the field boss. Aren’t dropped items supposed to remain for 3 hours before they disappear? We understood why there were no corpses but, did they need to recruit a second raid team if they already swallowed all the items? I just wasted my time for nothing.

When I heard the story of the first raid team, it was a spectacle… … People should not live like that.

Check the attached video. There’s also a conversation, so you can be the judge.

What kind of level 25 – 30 players are so shameless?

– There’s nothing petal-like about him.

– I watched the video, and he’s such a bastard.

-This is getting on my nerves. Please give back the users’ items.

-If that goblin bastard comes to the village, don’t let him join your party. If a tanker has that kind of mindset, they will never be useful.

-By the way, weren’t they good enough to catch the Brown Bear by themselves?

-Of course, they 100% got the field boss.

The field boss before dropped leather pants, I think it could be used until level 60? And users can wear it as early as level 20.

-1_ Whoa, that’s OP. If there’s something like that then, it would be worth it for that Petal Kim person to do what he did.


“These stupid bitches!”

Bang, bang, bang!

The man struck the desk repeatedly. His Middle Earth nickname was Petal Kim. Even after his desk cracked and the keys bounced off his keyboard, it did not relieve his anger.

“This is unfair, we didn’t even find it.”

Kuang!

“What do they mean, I ate all the benefits?”

Bang!

Nothing would change even if he shouted.

It was rumored that Petal Kim and his party planned a proxy PK using the Brown Bear and got all the items for themselves. Afterward, they formed a second raid team in order to waste everyone’s time.’

A dirty and vicious player, Petal Kim.

Once public opinion was formed, it was irreversible.

No matter how much he tried to clarify, and even after he uploaded his inventory and equipment window, no one trusted him, so his anger soared more and more.

‘Which bastard got all of it? What the hell is going on?’

Petal Kim was the only one who actually wanted to know who had taken the items. On the Internet, everyone thought that their party got all the items.

Even his party members, who could testify for Petal Kim’s innocence, did not reveal themselves. Maybe they also thought that Petal Kim got the items secretly?

‘They’re all idiots. Anyway, I have to find the bastard who defeated the Brown bear. If these rumors make me look bad, it will be difficult to play properly, damn it… I need to prove my innocence, in order to play Middle Earth smoothly. I have to find the guy who caught the Brown bear and ate the items dropped by the users.’

‘But who the hell is it? The musketeer couldn’t have caught it. Was there any other person hiding nearby? I should check the video.’

If it’s like this, I might never be able to find the culprit.

*************

“It’s a set item.”


The moonlit night also returned periodically from Middle Earth. Leeha made a torch and walked thinking about the Bear Leather.

When going somewhere, normal users would log out at night. Leeha’s attitude, however, was surprising. In fact, this was thanks to his frequent night marches in the military.

Walking alone in the forest at night without any lights like streetlights was really difficult for ordinary people to experience.

“The Set effect for 5 pieces gives 50% fire resistance. This means that at least five or more parts of armor can come out of that Brown bear.”

Which other parts are there? The coat, boots, and cap came out, so the two probable parts should be leather armor and pants, right?

Although Leeha was already equipped with three, greed did not disappear that easily.

His fire resistance increased by 30% thanks to the three items he had equipped.

If he got 2 more items, he could have gotten 50%.

Currently, the effect of the equipment he got raised his ‘Fear’ resistance by a total of 50%. However, fire resistance is much more useful than fear resistance.

Even if you looked at the internet bulletin board, the most important resistance was deemed as resistance against fire.

‘Even the Brown Bear spit out a fireball.’

It’s only natural to get fire resistance on desert and lava areas, and there are many other monsters that deal fire damage.

It was said that even humanoid monster archers shoot fire arrows. Which means that the benefit of increasing fire resistance was tremendous.

The same applies while going against users.

Wizards using the flame system is pretty much the same thing.

Flame Mage Ram Hwayeon also specializes in Fire Magic. Even mages who deal with elements like elementalists often used fire-based attack magic.

Even mages and other mages who often used common-type magic also usually chose the Fire-type for its attack power.

Compared to that, resistance to fear…

“No, it’s much better than nothing. Thinking like this while I was wearing beggar’s clothes just a moment ago, huh, I really am too greedy.”

Leeha looked at himself and sighed.


“By the way, are those two doing well?”

Biyemi and Jin Gonggong.

The bipedal lizard and the crow-rearing giant, how far are they from their destination.

After a while, he opened his Friends List window and checked their connection status.

Biyemi was in the Tamba Jungle, and Jin Gonggong was in the Emerald Forest.

Leeha looked at the two’s locations on the map and they were a considerable distance east from the capital, aelstock. Leeha didn’t think he would meet them for a while.

“When will I arrive? I have covered a little over half the distance now.”

Leeha was on his fifth day of travel towards the capital.

‘And… Cryomancer Ram Hwajung and Flame Mage Ram Hwayeon were located at the “Watching Peak”.’

‘Watching Peak? Where’s that?’

Leeha looked at the map, their position could not be seen in the official map of the Fibiel Kingdom. If so, it must be somewhere outside the border.

‘It must be a mountain, based on the word ‘Peak’.’

Grrrr. Hearing the growling sound, he put the map in his bag.

“Now, then, let’s go hunting.”

Bears still appeared on the way to the capital, but he was no longer afraid.

Leeha was now on the fifth day of his journey to the Capital. After catching the Brown Bear on his first day, Leeha had already caught more than a dozen bears. He was already Level 23.

Krrng, Krrng.

A small bear was scratching its back on a tree.

A human could not distinguish whether it was scratching its back or breaking the tree but the motion it made as it hit its back on the tree and made nasal sounds seemed cool.

About 60m away from the bear. Leeha crouched in the bushes.

‘It would be good if it died in a single shot.’

He pulled his index finger.

Paaa!

A gunshot resonated in the forest.

Kuoong!

The bear was struck just above its armpit, and it slumped down. The bear was barely breathing, and it could not move as the bullet had pierced it near the area where its heart was.

Leeha tried several times to find a bear’s weakness and found the answer.

A bear’s weakness was its heart, not its head. It was just below the ribs or just above the armpits.

Of course, if you were below level 12, it wouldn’t have done so much damage. However, Leeha’s attack power, which was increased by his agility, was above level 50.

“Amitabha.”

Leeha finished loading quickly.

When the second gunfire rang, the bear’s torso swung back.

Two shots.

Users who do party hunting to catch bears might give up if they saw Leeha’s ridiculous attack power.

‘Usually, it would take three to four shots, but this guy is small.’

It was smaller than the guys he had been catching. Since the characteristics and HP of each individual are slightly different, it was understandable that a smaller one would die quicker. Leeha stood up to get the bear’s meat.

Krrrng—.

And there is always a guardian next to a child.

‘It’s big! That’s three, no, it’s four shots.’

Of course, other players’ faces would darken if they heard Leeha saying three or four shots! However, it did not matter to Leeha, who was facing the big bear.

It meant that even if he reloaded and fired at the highest speed, it would take more than four minutes to hunt it.

However, as he looked at the mother bear standing on her two feet next to the young bear’s body, he was not flustered.

He pulled out the gunpowder bag and started reloading calmly.

It was big… Kwing.

The mother bear did not approach Leeha.

“As long as you are wearing the skin of the Bear king… bears cannot approach.”

He wasn’t simply able to raise his level to 23 through luck alone.

In the first place, he didn’t think about raising his level by hunting bears.

If he had touched a bear and had not killed it in one shot, he would have died. Nevertheless, he tried hunting with the thought of getting some meat…

‘It was absurd, really.’

There was a situation that caused Leeha to stop trying to do the reload on the move.

Knowing how fast the bear was, he was prepared to fight to the death, but the bear only growled from a distance and did not come any closer to him.

He was convinced that it was something that he had done by accident, but this continued to happen. The bears did not approach because he was equipped with the Leather of the Brown Bear, agonia Orso, the king of bears.

“Whew, it was not enough that I killed its baby, I have to kill the mother as well. I get sad at times like this.”

Still, the law of the jungle is unforgiving.

Leeha finished reloading his musket, fired, and killed the mother bear in four shots.

‘I will only hunt those that are on my way. It’s not too late to hunt bears after arriving at the capital first.’

Bears will not be able to counterattack as long as he has the items.

From now on, there was no need to rush to hunt. Besides, he might be able to save gunpowder by learning skills or changing weapons.

In order to solve his hunger, he was only hunting enough bears to get meat.

(To be continued…)
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‘Although I did not hunt that much, I was still able to reach level 23 by hunting monsters that took a party consisting of level 25 players to hunt. The level-up speed is really unbelievable!’

If Leeha’s level did not rise when he was hunting alone, how could a party possibly raise their level?

Phew, Leeha sighed and shook his head.

Kuuung, Kuuung!

“Aigoo”

When Leeha picked up the meat of the little bear and mother bear, he saw a smaller bear next to them. It seemed to be the size of a dog.

“Ahh……. Really, there was another baby?”

The medium-sized bear who bumped his back against the tree should have been the eldest son then. When he thought to himself why the mother bear hadn’t run away, he realized that it was because there was a real “little bear” as well.

“Umm, this, this.”

Kkuung! Kkung!

The bear cub approached and hugged Leeha’s ankle. Looking closer, it was only the size of a small dog.

Did it or did it not know that Leeha was the person who killed its parents and siblings? Maybe it didn’t know yet.

‘Damn it!…’

Leeha took the gunpowder bag and put it back into the bag. If it’s this size, it would die in one shot. It doesn’t have parents or siblings, so it would die anyway.

However, it was also true that a Maltese-sized guy snagged and clung to him.

‘Umm…… It would be strange to give bear meat to a bear, right?’

Leeha took some bread out of his bag and cut it a little. He put a piece of bread in his hand and put it in its mouth. It grunted and licked it.

The bear’s tongue tickled Leeha’s palm.

“It tickles, you punk!”

Kyuung! Kkung!


What could a bear hunter say to a bear? Leeha took care of the cub and set foot outside the forest.

However, no matter how far Leeha went, the bear cub kept on chasing him.

Kkyuung!

“Don’t follow me! You punk, I’ll one-shot you. I am your family’s enemy.”

He picked up his musket and made a rattling sound, but the bear cub only tilted its head while looking at him.

It then went to Leeha and hugged his ankles.

“Shit……It’s cute, but what should I do with it?”

The man wearing the leather of the bear king looked closely at the cub.

-Kijung.

-Oh, hyung! Have you arrived in the capital?

-I’m still on the way. I will die walking.

-Kek, be careful. The bears are pretty strong. You won’t even be able to run away, so just follow the road.

Leeha whispered to Kijung.

Kijung told him to be careful of bears… Leeha held back on telling Kijung what had happened to him. It would be more effective when they met and gave Kijung a surprise.

-Right. But aren’t you going to sleep? Aren’t you still a student? What about school?

-I’m pulling an all-nighter. We decided to run a raid a little later. I’ll be having my exams, but what can I do? The raid is more important. Don’t you know something called prioritization? Shouldn’t I prioritize things?

-Uh, yes. I see. Priority. It’s important, isn’t it?

He didn’t add that his aunt would really like how he prioritizes things.

– I have a question. By any chance, is it possible to catch and raise animals?

-Animals? Why? Do you want to buy a horse?


-I don’t. I’m talking about animal monsters in the field.

-Ah. Kek, you want to tame it and hunt together? But if you’re not a tamer, you won’t be able to tame monsters. Basically, they think of humans as enemies. Unless you dominate them completely, it is impossible to tame them.

-Right.

Kijung had a point. An aggressive monster is not called aggressive for no reason. They attack humans because it is already embedded in their instincts.

In order to tame these monsters, a Tamer has to use ‘Harmony Cognition’ and ‘Taming’ skills consistently to relax their mind and then control them.

– Can you give it food when it is only a cub?

– A cub? Have you seen a monster cub? Cubs are hard to find. Even when a monster’s HP is different, monsters of the same species still give the same experience points. Who will save a monster that gives the same amount of experience while having less HP? As soon as it is seen, it would get gruesome. They would get killed immediately.

Of course, from the standpoint of monsters, it was ‘murder’, but from the standpoint of users, it was ‘Jackpot’.

– I see. So you don’t know what to do, right?

-I don’t. It should be possible. Combat pets are used by Tamers, but transportation pets such as horses are also used by regular users. It’s very expensive because you also have to buy a sub-space pocket for animals. Anyway, I don’t think it’s impossible.

Kijung concluded that even though it had no precedence it should still be possible to tame monsters.

-Okay. Copy that. I’ll talk to you when I arrive in the capital. It will take 5 more Middle Earth days.

-That’s just terrible. I will give you some money to buy the scrolls… You’re having a hard time, hyung. Come quickly and let me have a look at you.

-Okay, I’m looking forward to it.

Leeha stopped whispering to Kijung. As the sound of the rumbling disappeared in his mind, he was worried about the bear cub in front of him.

‘If I leave it like this, it will die sooner or later.’

Wouldn’t it be better if it died naturally due to starvation?

As Kijung said, a baby doesn’t give users less experience. There is no way for users to overlook the “bear monster” that can be easily killed.

The word terrible spread in Leeha’s mind. The image of a bear cub being killed came to his mind for a moment.

Kku? Kku!


“I’m worried about you, man.”

The bear cub was struggling to hug Leeha’s legs while being ignorant of what its fate would be.

The specks of moonlight sparkled in the cub’s black eyes.

“God damn, why is my heart so troubled? It’s a really big deal.”

Leeha talked to himself on purpose and giggled. If people looked at him, they would think that he had a mental illness.

The cute little bear made him smile just by looking at it.

Because it was still a cub, it couldn’t sit properly, and the feeling of sloppiness when it was walking amplified its cuteness.

“Right, I’ll take you along. I have to take responsibility for you since I killed your mother and sibling.”

Deeply entranced with Middle Earth, Leeha did not think of the bear cub as a monster but recognized it as a sentient creature.

And he felt a strange sense of guilt.

“Let’s go, kid.”

Kii- KiiK!

He thought that he had seen it on TV before.

Leeha pinched the skin on the back of its neck and lifted the bear cub. Although it was a cub, it seemed that the bear was still a bear and made a rather threatening sound.

“Ah, do you dislike being lifted up like this?”

It was slow. It was so slow that even when Leeha slowed down his pace, the bear cub was unable to follow properly. Besides, since it was a cub, it did not have enough physical strength.

‘If I just let it walk, it will take another 20 days to reach the capital.’

If it’s obvious that it’ll get tired after half a day, what’s left is…

“Did I just suddenly become a nanny?”

Leeha hugged the cub. As if the skin of the Agonia Oso was its mother, the bear cub rubbed its head on Leeha’s coat and licked it.

“Hmmm, it’s cute but… … I was worried about the weight, but when I held it, it was pretty light?.

Thanks to his achievements Leeha had gained a lot of strength, and he was able to carry an additional weight of about 4kg.

‘Another one…’

Carrying a bear cub did not stop Leeha from his bear hunt. On the way to the capital, if he did not need to deviate for more than a certain distance from the road, Leeha would hunt a bear when he saw one.

He wouldl eventually need to raise his level so Leeha tried to get experience even if it’s just a little. A Brown bear laid on its side after he fired a third shot.

『You leveled up.』

“Wow, I am now level 24. It’s been going smoothly until now.”

Smooth? It’s an extremely fast level-up speed that general users can’t even dream of. Leeha took a step into the forest to gather some bear meat and sundries.

Kkung?

“Oops, I have to carry you.”

It’s only about 60m to the edge of the forest, but it took a long time for the bear cub to walk on its own. Leeha hugged the bear cub.

It’s only been one night but it felt heavier and it looked bigger as well.

‘No matter how big an animal can be, isn’t it growing a little too fast?’

It takes a year for a puppy to become a dog. Do bears grow on a daily basis?

“Noice?. Two pieces of meat and one claw. Wouldn’t it be good if I sold all this? Right, kid?”

Kkung!

Leeha smiled while taking the japtems near the dead bear. If he also sold the equipment dropped by users, he would be able to make quite a bit of money.

“If you only get past the initial hurdle, musketeer would be worth it-ah ah!”

『You have been poisoned.』

『HP will decrease by 50 every 10 seconds for 3 minutes.』

“Kaa, what is this?”

Kkung!

Rather than being sick, Leeha screamed out of surprise. Leeha shouted and dropped the bear cub on the floor. After he felt a cool sensation on his calf, he quickly checked the ground.

And between his coat and shoes, on the part where his crappy pants were located, he saw something green running away.

“A snake?”

Right. This is an area where bears and snakes appear simultaneously. It was wrong to ignore the things crawling on the floor and only deal with the bears.

Even so, he was less concerned because he confirmed that bears appeared in all areas of the forest and snakes only appeared in the middle of the forest.

Ssss- sss.

The snake flicked its tongue and quickly opened a distance from Leeha.

Snakes that had bitten and poisoned their victims quickly slithered away or dug underground and waited until their victims died.

It was an intelligent beast monster that was annoying to deal with.

“Crazy, with 50 HP every 10 seconds for 3 minutes, it dealt a total damage of 900?”

This meant that dealers around level 25 would have died with just one bite. Tankers and fighters had similar HP to Leeha at around 1300.

How about mages that did not put any points in constitution? If they are bitten without an antidote, they would still die even if they could catch the snake.

It was also one of the reasons why there were no mages or one-shot damage dealers in the hunting ground.

“This damn snake bastard, it bites and then runs away …”

Slithering on the floor in an S-shape, the snake had a small size. Shooting it with a gun would require enormous concentration.

Guoong, guaah! Sss, sss一一一.

“What? Kidd?”

While holding the musket and focusing, a Brown mass struck and fought against the green line. Kyaaak, Kyaak! The bear cub was still a bear, so will it let the snake’s attack pass? No, more than that.

“You can fight?”

(To be continued…)
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What the heck happened?

Both bears and snakes hibernated, and their food wasn’t similar, so they could coexist. Leeha hadn’t seen nor heard of them fighting like this.

Kaa! Kaaa! Sss, sss!

Anyway, the bear cub was fighting a green snake. And Leeha could see that the bear cub was strong.

It stepped on the snake’s neck with its foot, and put its claw on the snake’s head then bit it.

The bear cub quickly overpowered the green snake.

“Ho… You’re pretty good aren’t you?”

Kyaung! Kuuuang!

Then the bear cub bit the snake’s neck. The bear cub drank the snake’s blood and chewed its head.

“Haha. Good job, kid.”

Leeha approached the bear cub and gently reached out his hand. As it just finished fighting, Leeha wondered if the bear cub would be vigilant, however, when it smelled his hand, it immediately rubbed its head on it.

Kkung, Kkung.

“Okay, okay. Did you help out because you were worried?”

Kku!

It may not have understood Leeha’s words, but Leeha felt like they were having a conversation.

“In the meantime, it seems like you have grown again…”

‘Is it just me?’

The bear cub that had just finished hunting the snake felt a little bigger than before. Was it because Leeha was looking at the bear cub from a different angle, or was it really getting bigger?

The answer was clear when night fell. The bear cub had really gotten bigger.

It only took one day.


Within a day, the bear’s size had grown close to that of a medium-sized dog. Now, it was harder to carry around.

Leeha chewed on the meat of the bear he had hunted during the day and cheered on the bear cub.

“Come on, go over! Jump over it!”

Kuong, kuo-huh.

The bear cub, now the size of a medium-sized dog, recoiled in retreat.

“You can do it! It’s not as hot as you think! You are a bear! Bear! You got bigger too!”

Kouong…

The bear moved its head from side to side as if understanding Leeha’s words.

“Your king is Argonia Orso! You should not be afraid of fire! Does it make sense for the descendants of the Brown Bear to be afraid of fire?”

Huh- mop.

Of course, it made sense. The bear cub sat down.

“I can’t do it anymore… Is this kid more useless than I thought?”

It looked pretty good when it caught a snake, but was it impossible for it to jump over the bonfire?

‘The westerners are great. How did they get the bears to do tricks?’

It was obvious what Leeha was thinking.

He wanted to teach the bear cub tricks and show them in the capital city.

But he couldn’t get all the good things in life. No, the bear cub was not a pushover.

“I haven’t even thought about catching green snakes before…” Even if it got bigger, it’s still small, so he could hide it…

After catching the green snake once, Leeha experimented a few times, but the cub didn’t come out. The snake raised its head, attacked, and backed away, he eventually gave up on the experiment to save time.

He even met users that tried to attack the bear several times. He had a hard time convincing the users to turn back because it was his bear.


‘But it also had its limits… There are a lot of possibilities of getting attacked when they see you.’

The time would come when it would be hard to travel together.

There was also a reason why Leeha was trying to teach something to the bear, ‘I would have to mark it.’

If there was no perception that it is “Leeha’s pet”, the bear cub will be treated as a monster. I can’t just put “I don’t attack people” on top of its head.

What would happen if while I was distracted for a moment, a ranged dealer or a mage suddenly attacked? The bear cub might die.

Now that it was the size of a medium-sized dog, it had more HP, so it won’t die right away. But what would be the difference between dying in one shot and dying in two shots?

“This is so troublesome.”

Whenever Leeha thought about the capital, he had a lot of thoughts about how to handle the lunch box provided by Madame Lu, and even the bear cub.

Leeha laid down on the ground and looked up at the sky while basking in the warmth of the bonfire.

He was not going to sleep in the game anyway, he just grilled meat for a while, ate it and took a break, before starting his journey again.

Kkuung, kkung.

“Are you sleepy? Well, you are different from me. I think your tiredness has accumulated.”

Kkung-!

The bear cub fell down and laid at Leeha’s feet. He felt the sensation of a head rubbing on his calves.

“Okay, okay. Don’t worry I won’t leave you behind.”

Two more days had passed.

Only two days were left until he arrived at the capital. Forest hunting grounds where bears and snakes appeared would no longer be visible.

In other words, it had been the third day since he first met the bear cub. Of course, it was according to the time standard of Middle Earth.

“Uwaaak!! I-It’s a bear!”

“Aah! Don’t attack! It’s okay!”


Guoong, the bear shed thick saliva, sticking out its yellow tooth.

Each tooth was roughly as thick as a human palm. No one believed it when the person said it was okay.

“Uwaaaak!!! The user was bitten by the bear!!! Run away!!”

A warrior with a two-handed sword also ran away. If you didn’t have a proper party, it was difficult to hunt bears.

The bear cub was drooling on Leeha’s shoulder.

“No, it wasn’t a bite! Okay- Phew… They ran away again.”

Guo?

“Dude, what did you eat to grow up so quickly? This is why people misunderstand.”

Kkung! Kkuu-!

The bear cub snorted and struck Leeha’s head. They acted like friends laughing and pranking each other.

However, whenever the bear poked him lightly, it was strong enough to make Leeha’s body stagger.

In just three days, it had grown so much that it would be embarrassing to call it “little bear”. It had become large enough to scare users.

‘In just three days…’

Among the reasons why he couldn’t see a lot of monsters, he thought that the abnormal growth rate must have played a part.

No matter how fast a bear grew, it must have taken more than 3 years to become an adult. It grew so fast.

It also resembled its mother, and it was bigger than the “four-feet” bear that Leeha shot and killed.

Five? Maybe six?

It was at least 50% larger than the bear that died in three to four shots. Among the normal bear monsters, it boasted a huge size that belonged at the top.

“It may have been a bad idea to raise you from the start. Right, kid?”

Kkuu, Kkuu.

The bear answered, as if it was saying it was sad, while biting Leeha’s arm. Of course, it was just “play” biting in the bear’s point of view.

“Oh, okay. Don’t bite. I know you’re only playing, but my HP went down quite a bit.”

It lightly groaned, but it could feel his forearms twitching. If it was a little harder, Leeha’s arm would have been broken in one go.

“Sigh… So, when will we arrive?”

Leeha had no choice but to sigh. After the cub became an adult, their pace slowed down a lot.

In fact, the travel time itself had decreased a lot. He did not need to hold the bear cub while walking as it is able to follow Leeha’s steps quickly.

‘But that’s not the problem…’

Rumors had spread that a user was dragging a bear the size of a 12 seater van. It was the reason why Leeha’s pace had slowed down. Even now, after hearing the rumor, another team of users approached which caused Leeha to stop once again.

In addition to those who approached to confirm the rumors, people also came thinking that they are monsters… If he ignored them, they might attack the little bear, so it was a situation where he had to deal with each and everyone of them in order to clear up the misunderstanding.

“Huh, nim, t-t-t-that, are you sure it doesn’t bite?”

“I’m sure. It’s okay, it doesn’t bite.”

Five warriors hid behind their shields and raised their heads. They said that it was their first time seeing a bear up close without attacking them.

“Amazing… How? How did you tame it?”

“I do not know. Rather than tame it…”

Leeha couldn’t explain it properly. No, was it correct to say that it was already tamed in the first place? It didn’t attack people first, but that was all.

It didn’t really seem to listen to Leeha’s orders. It felt more like a companion or friend.

“Waa… That’s crazy. Are you a tamer by any chance? Well, there are no other jobs that tame monsters and beasts.”

“No.”

“Great. Will it give us experience if we catch it? It’s really big…”

“Don’t attack. If you attack, I won’t be responsible.”

The warrior’s shoulder collapsed when Leeha put his hand on top of it.

“Well, but I think that’s going to attack first.”

Kkuoong, Kkuoong.

The bear cub snorted. Of course, only Leeha was flustered.

“It won’t attack. So please just leave it alone. Can’t you see that it’s much bigger than regular bears? Its attack would probably be greater as well. If you fight for no reason, you will probably… die.”

Leeha’s words contained a nuance that users would be weaker than bears, but users took it for granted.

The bears that they normally hunted were largely different from the bear cub, it was like comparing a child to an adult.

Kuuung, Kuuung!

“Can it hunt together with you?”

One user asked. Hunting. That’s right, even though it did not listen to Leeha’s orders, he was intent on protecting it.

“Hunt… It can help me hunt a bit.”

In the 3 days they were together, Leeha was able to verify that the bear cub could stand toe to toe with regular bears. When Leeha attacked a bear, the bear cub would attack the bear as well.

The sight of two bears fighting was bloody and brutal, but Leeha’s heart was at ease. Bears couldn’t even be bothered to look at Leeha while fighting the bear cub.

In other words, it was possible to reload without any worries.

Sometimes, when he was bored, he only shot the first shot and left it to the bear cub to kill the bear, so it would have been pretty sad if the cub understood what Leeha said that it was “a bit” helpful in hunting.

“Cool… I also wanted to be a tamer.”

“No, I’m not a tamer-”

“But, can you ride it?”

“What?”

The gathered users didn’t seem to be interested in Leeha’s words. A strange question popped up from people who were busy expressing admiration and envy.

Get on? Bear?

“I do not know. I haven’t tried it.”

At that moment, he felt thankful to the users. He thought they were just annoying people, but he unexpectedly received help from them.

A forest hunting ground in the southern part of Aelstock, the capital of the Kingdom of Fibiel.

Rumors about the “shooter riding a bear” spread in an instant.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 43

				
“Huu, look! I can see it, kid!! Run!”

Kkung, Kkung!

Kuluku, kuluku, the bear’s body proceeded without hesitation, like a tank moving through grass.

“Yeeee—— Haw! Run like the wind, bullseye!!”

Leeha felt the cool breeze and grabbed the bear’s fur.

With a huge city wall in the distance and the spires beyond it, aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom, which was considered to be the most powerful country on the continent, caught his eyes in the distance.

‘Why didn’t I think of this earlier?’

He discovered it too late. If he had previously known e that he could move at such a tremendous speed he could have shortened his travel time by at least one to two days.

Then he must have already reached the capital by now!

What did he think of riding a bear? It’s all he knew now. Kik Kik.’

Leeha stared at the wall as he got closer to the city.

“Hiiik, I-it’s a bear…!”

“Ah, it’s okay everyone. It’s okay.”

The more users approached the gate, the more people became afraid and ran away, but Leeha reassured the users in a monotonous voice and reduced the speed of the bear cub.

The gateway to the capital was as peaceful as always .

There were a countless number of users and NPCs coming in and out, and there were enough guards on duty to check if there were any dangerous characters among such a large number of people.

A bear suddenly appeared at the gate.

And a human got off the bear.

Wouldn’t it be weird if one didn’t get flustered after seeing that scene?

No matter how Middle Earth was, it made sense.


“There’s a person! A person got off!”

“Yes, it’s okay because it’s a bear that doesn’t attack people. Don’t attack.”

“Ahh! Someone help! Help!!!”

“This does not attack people. Do not worry!”

Again, the gate was wide and there were many people. Much more than Leeha thought.

This made it so that Leeha’s voice couldn’t be heard.

“S-stop! Stop! Don’t come anymore!”

“Ohhh! T-t-t-there’s a bear here!”

“A monster has attacked!”

The guards at the capital gate pinched their spears in panic.

Users may have been surprised, but he thought NPCs would recognize tamed monsters. Were Leeha’s expectations too high?

No, wasn’t it because it wasn’t really tamed?

Users were even more surprised when they saw the guards get flustered. Leeha shouted quickly.

“It’s fine everyone ! Do not panic! I raised it! This bear does not attack people!”

Leeha was also nervous about the strangely escalating atmosphere.

The guards were aiming their spears? In other words, they recognized Leeha and the bear cub as enemies.

On the way to the capital, Leeha was able to placate five or ten users with his shout.

But now?

Both users and NPCs got flustered and panicked. Leeha’s shout did not have any effect on the people on the southern gate of the capital, aelstock, and was helpless.

Of course, it was because the bear cub’s huge size and threatening movements had captured people’s attention.


“Everyone get inside the gate! We will stop it! Levitation!”

“It looks like a field boss, everyone below level 60 should get inside the gate! If it’s that big, you might die in one shot! Fly!”

“W-what do you mean to stop it?! Wait a minute! Stop!! It’s not a field boss! I raised it!”

And Leeha saw for the first time.

They were clearly users. The two people that came from the gate were floating in the air.

“Ooh!”

“Amazing! They are high-level users!”

“Quickly kill that monster!” At the gateway, the large crowd running behind the mages all spewed admiration.

The estimated level of Wizards who could fly in the sky was at least level 150.

They had the skills to take care of the bear at a leisurely pace. To those who are flustered and panicked, they must have looked like heroes.

Were these users not aware of the field boss, agonia Oso? Mistaking Leeha’s bear cub for a field boss.

“Hey ! You two! Please don’t cast your spells! It is not a monster!”

Leeha shouted to the crowd, hurriedly stroking the bear cub’s head. However, the two mage users who floated in the air did not hear Leeha’s words.

Red and blue light gathered into the body of the two as dots of light gathered. Their casting had begun.

“Don’t attack! Don’t!”

Leeha instinctively knew that it was not a situation where words would solve the issue. His military spirit immediately kicked in.

First, he had to stop them. How?

He needed to counterattack.

One shot was already loaded.

Leeha immediately pulled out his musket and aimed at the mage users. The muzzle alternately aimed at the two. A sign that he could shoot whoever he wanted to.


But it was just a threat for now.

Even after casting, it was still possible to cancel the magic once.

“Please stop, finish casting and cancel the magic! If anyone attacks this bear, I won’t stand still!”

If they didn’t stop then, Leeha would fire his musket.

One musketeer against two mages with an estimated level of 150 or higher. Thousands of people at the gate watched the situation holding their breath.

Leeha clenched his teeth.

As soon as he arrived in the capital, he created an uproar.

‘Will my attack work? What is that magic? What if I die or the bear cub dies?’

In the meantime, time passed. The mages finished casting.

‘Cancel… Cancel it quickly.’

However, Leeha’s wishes did not come true. The light that went into their bodies didn’t disappear, but rather, it spewed out.

“Flame Strike!”

“Aura Bolt!”

The two mages activated their magic.

A huge flame blazed.

At that moment, Leeha remembered Ram Hwayeon’s Fire arrow, but it couldn’t be compared with this. Was this the rage of a living flame?

The magic activated in the dark blue light distorted space.

There was neither colour nor shape, so it was difficult to see what exactly it was , but space was clearly rippling. If one got caught up in those things, one won’t even know how they died.

‘Fuck!’

If casting was just a threat, then activating was no longer one.

Leeha did not care about the enemies in front of him. He did not care about what would happen to him or whether he would get a PK status. He will think about those things later.

First of all, there was only one thing on his mind, and that was to deal with the ‘enemy’ right in front of him!

He didn’t hesitate to pull the trigger.

Taaang—!

“Blessed Shield!”

“Area Dispel!”

Huowoong, a small light flashed for a moment and wrapped the southern gate of the capital Aelstock.

Those who heard the gunshot for the first time covered their ears and shouted.

“Ahhhh!”

“What- what? What happened?”

They heard the Kaaang late! That was the sound of metal hitting something hard.

The mage that Leeha aimed at was fine.

Since their level was high, did that mean they did not receive any damage from Leeha’s attack? At that, the mages who had puzzled expressions were also confused.

In addition, Leeha and the Bear were also fine.

What was the magic that interrupted them? The Flame Strike and Aura Bolt seem to have vanished into thin air.

Users, NPCs, and even the parties around the gate could not understand the situation.

What happened?

“The stranger with a bear, lower your weapon!”

“No one can cause trouble in the capital!”

Step, step. Two men walked out and the crowd parted like frightened chickens.

“Ah… Anti magic?”

“S-Sacred Knights!”

Leeha held his muzzle without knowing what was going on, however, the mages floating in the air knew.

Anti magic canceled all casting and magic of mages below the caster’s level.

In addition, because it scattered all the surrounding mana for a certain period of time, mages would not be able to use mana for a while.

To make it worse, the ones that used such high-end magic were not wearing cloth armor but full-plated armor.

Even without checking the patterns on their chests, they could see that they were the Sacred Knights guarding the capital of Fibiel Kingdom.

‘Sacred Knights?’

Leeha stared at the brilliant silver knights approaching him.

“Put down your weapon, stranger. Considering that the current situation was due to misunderstanding, we will not punish either party. But if you fire again, we won’t let it go .”

“They attacked first.”

“I know. However, it is true that you are the one who caused the misunderstanding. Therefore, I am saying that we will treat it as something that never happened.”

The knight’s tone was relatively polite.

Leeha also noticed that these people had done something. It must be said that the two mages floating in the air were surprisingly powerful.

As such talented people were not trying to solve it with force, they should be said to be polite anyway.

“Okay.”

Leeha lowered his musket and glanced at the mages. Another knight approached the mages.

“In the capital, the use of attack magic is forbidden except for those with permission. Considering that you have done for the safety of Aelstock citizens, I will pretend that this never happened, so please leave it to us now. Everyone, please disperse! You are blocking the way to the gate. Disperse!” The knight shouted to warn the mages and dispersed the crowd.

Leeha and the giant bear were quickly forgotten by the people who saw the high-end magic being cast and the skill that negated even that kind of high-end magic.

“Phew… Will the situation come to an end?”

Leeha sighed when he saw the people scatter, and one of the Sacred Knights approached Leeha.

“Would you please follow us?”

The knight’s voice was stern. It was a situation where the equipment and skills of the knights would cause others to be intimidated, but it wasn’t the case for Leeha.

Rather, he was confident. Actually, Leeha himself knew that he did not do anything wrong.

“… You won’t kill me after I follow you, right? And you won’t kill my bear?”

As soon as they saw the bear, users immediately tried to kill it, so it was natural for Leeha to think this way. At Leeha’s words, the knight’s eyebrows furrowed.

“In the name of the Sacred Knights, I Sir Cindergard swear, there will be no harm to the stranger and his bear.”

Tong-! Sir Cinderguard bumped his clenched fist into the left side of his full-plate armor.

Although Leeha felt nervous about the sudden action, sir Cindergard showed the best courtesy in his own way.

Because he guaranteed his promise using the title of “Sir” of a Knight to a stranger he had never seen before.

“Would this be enough?”

Of course, what could Leeha do in this situation? He didn’t know the meaning of what Cindergard had done. But taking a glimpse of the picture on the left chest of the full-plate armor, he could only speculate that this person was performing a salute-like movement.

“Sir Digrom, I have asked for consent from the stranger. Please guide him.”

“Okay, sir Cindergard. Follow me, stranger.”

“Ah, yes.”

Leeha and the bear cub followed Sir Digrom.

Only after Sir Digrom, lee Ha, and the bear cub walked along the gate’s wall did Sir Cindergard look for the remnants of the magic he used.

Blessed shield blocks all physical attacks below a certain level.

At least, as the Sacred Knights currently understood , there was no one in the capital who was capable of breaking the Blessed Shield with a single blow.

It was one of their main responsibilities to monitor the entry and exit of masters to the capital.

‘By the way, did the Blessed Shield crack? That guy…’

He was curious about the identity of the stranger who made him swear by the honor of the Sacred Knights.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha learned how great the Sacred Knights were, not because of their magic or power, but because of the notification window suddenly floating in front of him.

『Achievement: Sacred Knight’s Respect (C)』

Congratulations! You have gained the respect of the Sacred Knights; the Knight Order in charge of the defense of the capital of the Fibiel Kingdom. You will surely have a good relationship with those who appreciate your skills.

Reward: Continental reputation +50

‘A good relationship?’

The first time they met was when Leeha had created a riot, but it was said that they were going to have a good relationship.

Leeha smirked and looked at the other message of the notification window.

‘Defense of the capital…’

It was impossible for Leeha, a former army sniper, to not know what it meant.

They must be of the highest level amongst the Knight Orders in order to be entrusted with the defense of the capital. Although the only reward was fame, it was by no means small.

‘My Continental reputation so far was only 30 points?.’

And users couldn’t get it so easily. Thanks to clearing all the hidden quests at Candle Castle, he gained 30 reputation for being commissioned as an honorary guard.

But gaining 50 points just by getting respected by a knight?

‘There is a “Knight’s Respect”. So, is there a “Knight Commander’s Respect”? Or the respect of other knights?’

Moreover, from the title, it was certainly not a one-off achievement. Leeha couldn’t even get beyond the walls, and could only follow Sir Digrom.

“This place should do. Okay, what is that Bear to you?”

They were in a place far from the gate. It was only when the crowd was no longer in the way did Sir Digrom stop.

Leeha did not answer immediately.


Sir Digrom in front of him and Sir Cindergard standing behind him.

The two promised not to attack Leeha, but it was clear that they were in a position to guard against him.

“You don’t have to be too alert. I don’t think an Honorary Guard at Candle Castle will make a fuss in the capital of the kingdom.”

“Oh? Ah! Did you know?”

“Of course. We know that you have worked hard for Candle Castle, no, for our Fibiel Kingdom.”

He didn’t know how they knew, but after hearing Sir Cindergard’s words, Leeha was relieved.

‘Is the national contribution showing its effect? Or is it fame?’

He didn’t know what it was, but Leeha could guess that it was one of the two. If he thought about it, it was the same in front of the gate.

At least, the courtesy they gave to Leeha and the mages with presumed levels 150 or higher were the same.

“You have tamed the bear cub … No, I don’t think it’s right to say tamed, but I’ve confirmed that it doesn’t attack people.”

“I see. I don’t think you’re a tamer, excuse me, but is the coat you’re wearing made of Agonia Oso’s leather?”

“Yes.”

“Hoh. So maybe that’s why.”

Sir Cindergard nodded and looked at Sir Digrom.

Leeha had answered yes, but he didn’t know the purpose of their question.

“It is rare to see a monster that does not attack humans, but it will not be allowed to enter Aelstock. As you can see, even if it is completely tamed, it can cause confusion.”

“Then what should I do?”

“Humans go to human villages, and bears go to bear villages.”

“Are you saying that I let it go?”

Sir Cindergard nodded his head. Because they were in charge of the defense of the capital and not ordinary gatekeepers, Leeha was not able to do anything.


“Can I enter Aelstock?”

“Of course.”

Sir Cindergard once again banged and struck his left chest.

Leeha’s worries did not last long, he loved the little guy, but Sir Cindergard’s words are certainly valid.

Humans to human territory, bears to bear territory.

The NPC Knights checked again whether it was tamed.

If Leeha, who had national contribution, had tamed the bear cub then there would have been an indicator.

In other words, since there was no such indicator, wasn’t he trying to check whether it was a monster or not?

‘In the end, unless one is a tamer, one should think that taming is impossible, right?’

If one already has an answer, there is nothing more to think about.

“Okay. I’ll release it and come back.”

“Thank you for your cooperation.”

With that Leeha turned around with the bear cub. They will have to go to the forest hunting ground where bears appear and release it there, so he would have to spend about a day in total.

“Honorary Guard of Candle Castle, what is your name?”

“Pardon?”

“I asked for your name.”

‘Why are they asking for my name? Will they put it on a blacklist or something similar because I caused a ruckus as soon as I arrived at the capital?’

‘However, the look on Sir Cindergard’s eyes did not seem to imply that.’ “It’s Leeha.”

“Are you a musketeer?”

“Yes.”


“So that’s why.”

‘What? Huh?’ Leeha could not grasp the reason for Sir Cindergard’s question. However, the Sacred Knights finally crossed the wall and entered the capital. Their plate armor flashed and they flew across the sky.

“It’s so cool, it’s so damn cool.”

How high was their level? It should be considerably higher than the level of the users.

“Come on, kid. To your home.”

“Kkung, kkung!”

How much did it understand Leeha’s words? The bear cub started running to the forest in the south of the capital as soon as Leeha got on.

“Go.”

KKung?

“Don’t say anything like kuoong. Leave quickly.”

Leeha came to the place where the trees were growing luxuriantly before getting off the bear cub. Even if he stroked and stroked his palms, the cub was making a small shout, saying that Leeha was playing a joke.

They were together for less than a week.

It wasn’t long, but they developed quite a bit of intimacy with each other.

Although the bear cub could not talk, it was the only companion Leeha could converse with on a lonely journey…

Additionally, although it grew incredibly fast, Leeha was the only person who had been with the bear cub since it was a baby. It would be weird if they didn’t get attached to each other.

“I am sorry for killing your mother and hyung.”

Whoever died would have died. But to Leeha, the bear cub was more than a monster, more than a forest creature, and more than a creature created in Middle Earth.

And Leeha felt guilty and saddened for the bear cub. Aside from the Agonia Oso, it was the largest bear he’d ever seen.

“Kkung, Kkung.”

The bear cub licked Leeha’s cheek.

Its tongue was larger than Leeha’s face. The soft, wet tongue swept over Leeha’s cheeks and face.

“Ugh, don’t do that. Just leave already, you punk.”

He may have said it like that, but Leeha was thankful to the bear cub. If it wasn’t for the saliva lathered all over his face, tears would have been seen.

“Kkung kkung.”

The bear cub snorted and tried to hug Leeha. Compared to five days ago, when Leeha could carry the bear cub, its size had grown by nearly a 100 times.

Now, seeing a bear running towards him, Leeha’s throat suddenly choked.

“Hmm, don’t be like that! If you don’t leave,I will shoot you!”

He barely cleared up his cracking voice and lifted his musket up.

He pretended to load in order to scare away the bear cub but it only laughed, as if he saw Leeha’s action as a joke.

Come to think of it, this threat didn’t work even when he was a baby. How can a musket frighten the bear cub now that it’s all grown up?

It was also used by the person who held and fed the bear cub himself.

“Leave! Quickly!”

“Kuuoong…”

Leeha faced the bear and stepped back. Only then did the bear cub make a sad voice as if understanding their separation.

“Don’t fight with your own people. Just because I killed bears, doesn’t mean you should kill bears too. Understand?”

“Kuung.”

The bear walked two or three steps towards the forest, stopped and then turned its head. It had the same black eyes he had when he was a baby looking at Leeha.

“Kuang, Kupong.”

“U-uwah! Come on?”

The cub suddenly rushed to him. Since it was large, it was inevitable that Leeha was also surprised.

“A-ak. It hurts, you punk! Now you are getting it!”

The cub ran into him and bit Leeha’s hand. The bear quickly sipped the slowly leaking drop of blood. Even when Leeha was eating grilled meat, it had never been like this, so why was it acting like this so suddenly?

“Oh? Huh?”

Without understanding, he raised his arm.

The light emanating from the large bear cub blinded him.

『Achievement: Soul Mate (D+)』

Congratulations! You, who took risks and respected Middle Earth’s creatures, have a companion linked to your soul. Even though you are apart, your companion will never forget you.

Reward: Intellect +4, mind +5, skill: Soul link acquisition.

You are the third registrant of the achievement 『Soul Mate』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.

Effect: Intellect +8, mind +10

“W-what is this? Soul mate?”

Not a pretty girl, but a bear? It occurred to him, but Leeha no longer wanted to play pranks.

“Kkuuung…….”

“Yes, I guess you’re saying you won’t forget me. Thank you, kid.”

Huh, huh.

Leeha pinched the bear’s cheeks and shook its face. It was really goodbye now.

“Be healthy.”

“Kuung.”

The bear cub turned around and walked into the woods.

“Goodbye, kid!”

“Kkuuuuuu—.”

The bear cub didn’t look back. Slowly entering the forest, the footsteps of the bear cub slowed down for a while and then it made one long cry.

“Tsk.”

Leeha looked at the forest for a long time, leaning against his musket. Until he no longer saw the bear cub, Koma.

The steps he took towards the capital were heavier than he thought.

‘I didn’t feel like this even when I separated from Biyemi or Jin Gonggong.’

Was it because they were users that he could talk to at any time?

Perhaps it was because they only received a penalty upon death, and he didn’t need to worry about them disappearing forever. But Koma was different.

That bear cub could be hunted at any time and could disappear at any moment.

After walking back to the capital, he remembered the rewards from his achievement.

‘The skill! Yes, there was that.’

He quickly reopened the notification window. The rise of intelligence and mind. Third registrant in the Hall of Fame.

Of the more than 100 million cumulative users, should he be surprised that there were two more people who did the same thing as Leeha, or should he be surprised that there were only two?

‘There were others like me? If it’s a baby monster, wouldn’t they have shot and killed it as soon as they saw it?’

To gain more experience! He couldn’t help but think this. The other two who got the achievement would have been great people.

『Beginner’s Soul Link』

Description: You can summon the soul of your soul mate. The soul of the summoned soulmate can regain the body it possessed just before its death, and can be strengthened according to the user’s level. (Skill cannot be leveled up.)

Effect: Summon Soul Mate for 30 minutes, additional enhancement:1/2 of user’s level

Mana: 200 Cooldown: 24 hours

“Hmm… … Can be summoned. Having the body just before death. Did they expect the monster to get caught someday?

‘Then what if it didn’t die? Will it always get updated to its latest state? All monsters leveled up, right? No. It may be because it was not just a monster, but a soulmate state.

If normal monsters continued to level up, hunting for normal users would have been impossible.

Anyway, according to the description of the skill, the moment it dies someday, the strength of the Soul Mate would remain the same from then on.

It meant that the summoned soul could only be strengthened by additional enhancements based on the user’s level.

(To be continued…)
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“Its rank is marked as ‘beginner’, but you can’t raise its level… Does this mean that it can’t be raised through experience and effort? Anyway, it could mean that it is still possible to raise the rank.”

After checking the skill, Leeha felt a little relieved.

There was a huge difference between being able and not being able to meet again.

“Haha, little kid. Grow up well! It’s big, so it should do well.”

Leeha shouted at the forest and walked back to the capital. Of course, he didn’t know what the bear cub would do and how it could get bigger.

He only arrived at the capital after a full day.

It was time to focus on himself again.

-Kijung!

-Yes, hyung. I’m hunting.

-Ok. I think I will arrive at the south gate of Aelstock by noon tomorrow.

-Okay. Tomorrow, I will wait for you in front of the South Gate. By the way, did something exciting happen to you? Would you like to tell me? Leeha just laughed.

-What is it? I was thinking of getting something for you.

-It’s okay, hyung. Get to level 15 or so. That way, you can proceed with the quest right from the Musket Academy. Probably the next level will be level 20. Do you want me to help you?

-15? 20?

-Yes. It’s hard, but it’s doable! I will continue to hunt too.

Tuk, the ringing in Leeha’s head stopped.

Due to the nature of Middle Earth, it was difficult to whisper while on a party hunt.

“Level 15… What level did he think I was at?”


Leeha should have said that he was already at level 24.

“I have to raise my level to 25 while passing the time.”

Level 25 has a nice ring to it. Leeha opened his bag. There were roughly more than 60 sets of gunpowder and bullets remaining. There would be no problem with raising one more level.

“I just got separated from the bear cub and now I am going to hunt bears again, I’m like a psychopath.”

Rather than that, talking to himself and giggling made him look more like a psychopath, but Leeha didn’t know that.

A musketeer with a coat, boots and hunting cap made of leather from Field Boss Agonia Oso.

When he leaned on the ground, covered by dark red leather, a camouflage effect appeared as if Leeha was one with the ground.

Now a fairly seasoned bear hunter, Ha Leeha aimed at a bear walking on the other side of the forest where he released Koma.

—

Kkuuu–.

The kid knew that no one would take care of him in the future.

Its intelligence was not high, but it knew that it was different from the human and they couldn’t continue to be together.

Kkuu, kuu.

Fortunately, their souls were connected in the end, so they would be able to see each other again. The bear cub was as lonely as Leeha right now.

He kept walking into the forest without humans.

Ordinary bears ignored snakes even when they saw them, but the bear cub strangely hated those green strips.

Kkua!

Sss?

The bear cub popped the snake’s head that dared to pass by it. Was it because he remembered being asked by his soulmate one day?

Or was it because it tasted the meat of the snake at that time?


The bear cub picked up the dead snake and bit it.

Kuong, kuong.

If someone saw it, they would think that it was chewing bubble gum.

Kau, Kuo!

Kwi, Kwi.

And it saw several bears in the distance. Bears did not live in groups like wolves, but they moved as a family unit.

Daddy bear, mommy bear, and baby bear?

Daddy Bear wasn’t fat, and Mommy Bear wasn’t slim.

And of course, even if it was a baby bear, it had no problem with beating humans before and after level 20.

In the eyes of the bear cub, it was nice to have colleagues.

Kku! Kkuuong!

Kukuku, Kukuku. The bear family turned their heads towards the bear cub who suddenly started running toward them.

Kuo, Kuu!

Kku?

And they naturally had boundaries.

Since they did not live in a group, the boundaries they had would inevitably be severe. The kid who grew up with Leeha since childhood did not know it, but the bear family recognized him as an enemy. Kku, kku!

Ku-!

Kku, kkuong!

The bear cub gave out the snake he had chewed. It must have meant that it wanted to become friends, but the bear family just looked at the bear cub with absurd eyes.

The bear family surrounded the bear cub and smelled it. It smelled mildly human, but they didn’t care about it.


Because they noticed a bloody odor from Koma’s body.

Ku… Ku…

Kuu…

The smell that made the bear family bow their heads. The King’s Scent.

The king of bears to rule them all. They smelled the king’s scent from it. But the bear family clearly knew.

The bears’ throne is currently vacant, and a bloody fight was about to happen in order to take the vacant throne.

In the midst of that, a bear cub appeared with the king’s scent.

Kkung?

Kuu, kuu-

The bear cub listened to the bear family. For a long time, after the cries of bears rang, the bear cub scrunched its nose.

The king of bears…

And thought.

The smell came from his own soulmate.

If its soulmate smelled like the king of bears, it thought that it had to qualify as well.

Kkuuong–!

The kid stood up on both feet.

It seemed that it was bigger than the trees around it, as it stood up. What’s more, was it gave an overbearing feeling.

The bear family trembled as they saw how enormous the bear cub was.

The bear cub’s last kkuung, perhaps what it meant was…

“Guide me.”

—

-Kijung-ah, where are you?

-I am at the south gate… Have you arrived?

-Yes. You?

-I’ve been here since morning. I am chatting with my guildmates.

-Where? Can’t you see me?

Leeha looked around.

“Where are you? Even after a day, the southern gateway of the capital was still crowded with people. He couldn’t find Kijung and his guildmates when they had been there since morning.

“Let’s go catch the Kobolds, level 30 needed. Will only talk to those who know the location of the hunting ground.”

“Looking for a bear hunting party! I’m a level 28 tank, please take me!”

“Looking for a person who will go to Orenu village together!”

The capital was wide. It was only natural that people were crowded at the exit close to the hunting ground, rather than seeking party members in the central square like in Candle Castle.

‘I know what needs to be floating above my head.’

Just like in old online games, if you hover your mouse to a character, its ID or something like that will pop up, in order to recognize who it was .

All that was around were humans and sometimes giants. Occasionally, wood Elves and female users could be noticed, but they did not have much significance.

Anyway, it wasn’t easy to meet without landmarks in a huge area.

“Is he coming?”

“Yes. He will come here. Probably arriving soon.”

“It’s my first time seeing a Musketeer in a very long time. Can he arrive safely? He didn’t get killed by a bear, right?”

“My hyung has good senses. His job is a little peculiar, but he will be fine. When he enters our guild, he will unconditionally be an asset.”

“Well, but it’s difficult for users around level 10 to enter the guild.”

“Ah, where is your hyung? Just look for him and introduce us.”

A small voice could be heard in Leeha’s ear, who was wandering around. He couldn’t see them, but…the direction of the voice was clear.

“Kijung-ah! Master Kay! Where are you!”

“Well? Oh, hyung! Here!”

Someone raised his hand.

Leeha ran to meet Kijung. Leeha and Kijung saw each other. The two finally met in Middle Earth.

They were both embarrassed and lost for words.

“Is this him?”

It was a group that Leeha found as soon as he arrived at the southern gate of Aelstock.

Those who really shine even among people who are hardworking.

There was nothing to say about the incredibly luxurious equipment, and it was even more noticeable because they were wearing a pair of matching dark blue cloaks.

No way this was Kijung.

Of course, he thought it would be a certain level.

But what is this? Even if Kijung said that he was a Sacred Knight like the ones he met yesterday, Leeha would believe it.

Someone in full-plate mail, one in half-plate mail, one in tanned leather, and even one in a robe embroidered with all kinds of shapes.

He was wondering why these experts were sitting here…

‘Are they the guildmates of Kijung?’ However, they also thought the same thing.

“Amazing… What are those clothes? Where did you get it?”

Kijung imagined that Leeha was a desperate, beggar-like beginner who just finished the golden eagle and walked to the south gate of the capital city.

He even saw Leeha’s back before.

Since there was such a difference between expectation and reality, they were not able to see each other.

A long coat made of dark red leather? He had never seen such a color. By the way, the shoes and hat must be from the same leather? Although he had a warrior-type job, and he didn’t wear leather clothes, he knew for sure.

These items were not sold in the Tailor shop.

In other words, it can only be obtained by hunting.

“Hyung… What? What is this? Who gave it to you? Did you steal it?”

“What’s the fuss? I got it by hunting.”

“What did you hunt? Aren’t you level 13? This is a wild boar’s color, there is no way.”

Of course you can’t catch a bear. It was a foregone conclusion that he would have luckily caught a boar near the Candle Castle, and it was a realistic guess.

“Is this your hyung?”

“Ah yes…”

Kijung and Leeha were confused as they looked at each other. It was the same for Kijung’s guildmates, who found it absurd, but one person spoke first.

A person wearing an embroidered robe reached his hand out to Leeha.

“Hello. I heard a lot from Kay. I’m Hyein.”

“Ke… Oh, yes, yes. Hello. I am Ha Leeha. I don’t think you’ll hear anything, but I guess you’ve only seen strange things.”

Hyein was a scholar type with a soft, pure impression that would fit even if he was wearing glasses.

His tone was as soft as that.

‘It’s different because he’s called Kay. His ID was Master Kay.’

Why was he called Kay? It seemed like a sudden laughter came out.

“Nice to meet you. Army sergeant, sniper-turned-musketeer. Kijung won’t stop praising you for having tremendous potential. He called us all, saying we had to meet you today.”

“My, when did I, Guild master hyung? Don’t say such weird things.”

“That’s right! You said it just a moment ago.”

Kijung’s face turned red and he waved his hand. Although he strongly denied it, Leeha was grateful to Kijung. Yes, he was such a nice guy.

“Haha, thank you, Kijung-ah.”

“No, I really didn’t. Anyway… what are those clothes really?”

“Isn’t that the field boss’s clothes? If I remember correctly, it’s Brown Bear… What was its name? Anyway, it seems like these items drop when you catch the bear boss. I remember seeing it at an auction house before.”

A man dressed in black leather snuck in.

Perhaps this person’s silhouette couldn’t be found at night when the moonlight was weak.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 46

				
“Yes. That’s right. It is made of Agonia Oso’s leather.”

“Ho… … . That’s great. How do you have this already… … . Oh, this is Sasuke.”

“Sasuke? Are you a Japanese per-”

“No, I’m Korean. Haha. There was an Anime that left a deep impression on me.”

“Oh, I know what it is.”

“Yes. I have the same job too.”

He was smiling, but not a completely genuine smile. It is some kind of disguised and mastered smile.

‘”The” job? Is he a ninja?’

He doesn’t talk clearly but has modest manners. Basically, he was a very alert person.

After Leeha made his first impression of the man named Sasuke, they shook hands.

“Field boss? Agonia, what? This is the first time I heard of it. Does Sasuke know about it?”

“Yes. Kay, you haven’t seen it? There’s been uproar in the community these past few days. What kind of tanker does not know Agonia Oso?”

When Kijung asked with excitement, the Korean named Sasuke interrupted him.

There was an incident where the Agonia Oso, the field boss in the south of the capital, spawned after a long time. However, no one knew who killed it and took all of the items. The community was in uproar and swear words were rampant.

‘Surely?’

Sasuke took a peek at Leeha.

Even in the midst of that, Leeha seemed to be clear headed while looking at the equipment of Kijung’s guildmates.

“And this is the Highlander I talked about last time. 5th-Dan in Kumdo. I brought him to let you know about the battle assistance system.”

“I am Tale.”

“I am Ha Leeha.”


The man wearing a half-plate mail with iron chest and leather belly reached out his hand to Leeha.

A low, bold voice and a short greeting.

Maybe because he heard that the man was a 5th-Dan Kumdo practitioner, but Leeha felt like he could feel the calluses in Tale’s hands.

“Hehe. If you have any questions, you just need to ask hyung. I called everyone and took their precious time away in order to help you. But before that, what is your level?”

Kijung looked at Leeha with a warm smile.

He wanted to help Leeha level up some time in the future, but he knew that this is the time when Leeha had a lot of questions and it is difficult to level up.

It’s not just Kijung.

Guild Master Hyein, dark Ninja Sasuke, and Highlander Tale knew and went through it as well.

The four were looking at Leeha with their own thoughts.

‘Where should I help you?’

‘What is the first question he will ask? No, before that.’

‘What is his level?’

Everyone knew how long Leeha had been playing.

With that alone, they can get a sense of how well this person has adapted to Middle Earth and how good he is.

The four people who are now gathered are the experts to that degree.

If they are level 10-12, one is a beginner. If they are level 13-14, one has some sense and some tricks about the game. If they really have a good sense and were used to Middle Earth, one could get to level 15 which would have been perfect.

And Leeha opened his mouth as he stared at them.

“Right now… I’m level 25.”

The four man’s jaws dropped.

“Come again?”


“Yes?”

“What level?”

“Hmm?”

The three of them looked at Kijung asking him what happened.

You said he was around level 10?

You said he just finished the golden eagle quest?

You said it was his first time coming to the capital?

Isn’t it different from what you told us? They couldn’t really talk loudly because they were in front of Leeha, but they were already throwing questions to Kijung with their eyes.

“Uh, you are a newbie and you’re already level 25?”

“Yes. It happened that way. I did some hunting while on the way.”

“Hunt? What? What?”

Brain rebooting… Loading…

Kijung couldn’t understand Leeha’s words. What did he hunt while on the way? No, it doesn’t make any sense.

“Did you not come right away from Candle Castle hyung?”

“I arrived yesterday in Middle Earth time.”

“Yesterday? Okay, let me see. You probably didn’t level up ten times in one day. Most of all, you wouldn’t have been able to find a party around here.”

“Of course not, you idiot. How do you level up ten times in one day.”

They didn’t know it.

But, the day he caught the field boss, Brown Bear, argonia Oso, Leeha leveled-up 9 times.

“uh… … What and how…


”

Kijung couldn’t figure out what to ask Leeha. Hyein approached Kijung, who could only scratch his head.

“K-Kay. Then you can talk with your hyung-nim first. Could you call us back later?”

The same goes for Hyein, who was embarrassed.

He thought that Leeha was only around level 10, so he came for a bit, but he was already level 25?

He had nothing to say. Unless they knew how he got to level 25, it would be troublesome to stay next to him.

First of all, they will only be able to help Leeha after he had a conversation with Kijung to understand the current situation to some extent.

In other words, having everyone here together would be a waste of time.

“Is that so?”

“Ha Leeha-nim? Would it be okay to add you to my friend’s list?”

“Ah, yes. It is an honour.”

Hearing Leeha’s answer, three windows of friend requests popped up in a row.

Hyein, Sasuke, Tale.

Leeha thought for a while, he felt that others did not have such an opportunity to be added as friends by people like them. He accepted all three requests.

“We will be there, so come to the hunting ground with your hyung-nim.”

“Yes, Guildmaster hyung.”

Hyein bowed and drew a magic circle on the ground. Sasuke nodded to Leeha and stepped into the magic circle.

Highlander Tale looked at Leeha with a pretty impressed expression.

“I’m looking forward to meeting you again.”

“Yes?”

“Well then.”

It could be said that because he was a martial artist, even the greetings seemed stiff. After Leeha bowed his head, the three were already on top of the magic circle.

“Then, see you next time, Ha Leeha. Portal.”

Hyein smiled and lifted his large wand on the completed magic circle.

A magic that can be activated just by tapping the floor.

He wondered if the light was emanating from the magic circle, but suddenly the three people disappeared.

“Why don’t we talk about it now? What happened?”

Kijung asked Leeha, who was looking at the magic circle.

“Where should I start? Haha.”

Anyway, one thing was certain.

He should redact the part of Hong Kong’s Ram Sisters. Leeha began to tell what happened.

… At Aelstock’s Pub.

“Paha, you really caught it yourself?”

Kijung slammed the wooden cup. The butterbeer in the capital tasted the same as the one in Candle Castle and unlike Leeha, Kijung was drinking merrily.

“Yes. When I hunted it, my level rose a lot in one go.”

“That’s great… The musket’s damage is definitely huge. It doesn’t seem impossible if you have enough time and can hit a couple of shots, and if you get a critical hit at the right spot.”

Kijung was certainly an expert.

Even though Leeha simplified his explanation, the situation at the time was almost the same to what Kijung deduced.

Those who raided the field boss, the raid team that was ruined by selfishness, the raid leader who ran away, the boss that chased the disorganized raid team, and Leeha, who looked at the situation, and shot his musket from a distance.

If it’s a single attack, the musket held by Leeha dealt a whopping 233 damage. Warriors’ weapons must reach level 100 in order to have 233 attack power.

‘Of course, one shot per minute, and considering the accuracy rate… it’s not comparable to swords that have close to 100% accuracy and can be swung dozens of times per minute. If you look at just one attack, it really looked very strong. The field boss’s health must have been almost depleted.’

It was established that it wasn’t impossible.

In addition, although Leeha did not talk about it, but, if one considered the increased agility due to his achievements, it was not something a level 20 and 30 could achieve. No, it is much higher than that.

“That’s amazing. Is it different because you were a sniper? There is also an archer in our guild. His longest range with the Longbow is 66m. I tried it once, but I immediately turned on combat assist. I can’t do it.”

“Long Bow? Its default range is 65m, right?”

“I see. When I turned off the original combat assistance system, I couldn’t even hit a target at all. He tried it in the beginning and he constantly practiced the bow but he was only able to increase his range by a single meter. No, I can’t even say it increased. It was only hit by accident.”

In fact, that’s already great.

He was able to hit the target at the 66m range without the help of the combat assistance system. This was the reason most archers had no choice but to turn on the combat assistance system.

If they turned it off, their range became shorter.

“Hmm, as expected I have good eyes. My hyung’s musket range is l0-”

“Oh, keep it a secret. Don’t tell anyone about it, whether your guildmates or anyone. Tell them that it’s roughly around 45m.”

“Huh? Why? My hyung’s range is 100m-”

“Shh!”

Leeha blocked Kijung’s mouth. No matter how noisy it is, if they talked about it openly, someone might hear them. And Leeha wanted to keep his range a secret.

“I can’t even say that you were successful in-?”

“No, you can’t.”

“But if I told them that, wouldn’t it be easier for them to let you join?”

Kijung drank his butterbeer.

No matter how much the field boss’s item was worn, the attack power of one shot is strong, but it must show the potential and value beyond that.

Anyway, Leeha’s current level is 25.

He had tremendous power compared to users of the same level, but from the guild’s point of view, he’s just one low level user.

“What? What are you talking about? I’m not joining your guild.”

“What? Why?”

“Just…because.”

“Seriously. What are you talking about? Although I’m the one saying it, our guild is quite well-known. I even talked about everything on purpose.

‘Byulcho’. Have you never heard of it?”

Kijung showed off the cloak on his back.

Three yellow dots in dark blue.

Even though it was a relatively dark bar, the yellow dot sparkled as if it were self-luminous. Kijung, who is wearing a full-plate mail, had an additional cape, so he felt like a knight.

“It’s cool, but I haven’t heard of it.”

“No. You’re embarrassing me. Do you remember guildmaster hyung? Hyein hyung. That hyung is 8th in the Korean rankings.

‘Sage’ Hyein. He had been in broadcasts a couple of times.”

“8th place?”

“Are you kidding me? A single spell from that hyung! With just one spell, all hell breaks loose.”

“What is his world ranking?”

“World ranking? hmm… I think it’s around the top 40? I’m not sure.”

“Oh, okay.”

“What? What is that flat reaction? Are you not surprised?”

Kijung felt like crying as if he had been ignored. Of course, Leeha was a bit curious that he added a friend to the 8th place in the Korean rankings, but he couldn’t be surprised as much.

He saw someone higher.

The Cryomancer Ram Hwajung is ranked 9th in the world. Now, he won’t be surprised seeing the top 40 in the world rankings.

“Which rank are you?”

“Hey, he’s trying to know a lot more. Kek.”

“Don’t be shy. What rank are you? What is your job?

Leeha laughed at Kijung.

“I should be in the top 100 in the Korean rankings, I think? Still, if you say “Templar” Master Kay, there are no people in our hunting grounds who wouldn’t know me. I’m an invincible tanker.”

Kijung raised one of his eyebrows and sipped a butterbeer. His eyes were like saying ‘I’m the best’,. Leeha’s mouth turned into ‘O’ shape, but that was all.

‘Would that mean that he is around the top 400~500 in the world ranking?’.

Out of 100 million players, he was around 400-500th.

It was incredibly high, but it didn’t really faze Leeha.

“If it is in the top 100 in Korea, what is your level?”

“I’ll be 200 sooner or later. I’m currently level 198.”

It meant that the level-up was slow enough to be expressed as ‘sooner or later’. Leeha immediately understood.

“Ho, that is amazing. Aren’t you higher level than I thought?”

“You’re not surprised by my ranking, but by my level? Anyway, I’ll guide you later and take you to the academy. You should go hunting too.”

“What about money?”

“Ah, yeah. Hehe, I thought you would forget it.”

“How could I forget?”

Leeha bumped cups with Kijung. Not getting drunk, but creating an atmosphere different from drinking freely at a cousin’s house. That alone made him feel good already.

Had it been reality, how many difficulties would there have been to get to a bar?

The one that led Leeha to such a world was also because of Kijung. Leeha felt extreme gratitude as he looked at his cousin who bumped cups with him.

(To be continued…)
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“Then, see you later. Guild Master-nim.”

“Yes, Tale-hyungnim, take care.”

Highlander Tale said goodbye to Guild Master Hyein and stepped out. Tale was older than Guild Master Hyein, however, even when he was told to be comfortable, Tale remained formal, saying that guild members should not be casual with the Guild Master.

“Huu…”

After Tale left only Sasuke remained, seated next to Hyein.

They were in an abandoned building unused by NPCs that was set for remodelling. It was on a separate location from their guild house.

They were in Fibiel Kingdom’s ghost town.

Naturally, every guild had this kind of a secret base. When a guild war broke out, these kinds of places could be used as a safe house, therefore it was natural that they were kept secret.

‘Byulcho’ had six of such places.

“He’s an inflexible ajussi.”

“That’s true.”

“Is there anyone nearby?”

“There’s no one.”

At Sasuke’s words, Hyein nodded his head. In these kinds of things, he could trust Sasuke 100%.

Dark Ninja Sasuke.

He was level 212 and there weren’t many people who wouldn’t be caught by his detection skills, even among all users in Middle Earth.

“Were you able to check?”

Hyein pulled a chair and sat down.

In an instant, Hyein’s gentle face disappeared.

It was replaced by a frown and sharp eyes.


“Yes. As you said, even though all the items had changed, his body shape and weapon was the same as the one in the picture.”

“Is it him?”

“There’s a high chance. He is level 25, but aside from that, I wasn’t able to check anything else.”

“You were not able to see his stats?”

“I wasn’t able to see his stats. It means that he is not a beginner.”

One of the Dark Ninja’s main skills was to gather information from a target. Ninjas have major skills related with stealth and assassination as well as minor skills related to dectection and investigation.

If Sasuke, a level 212 user, wanted to figure out information about Leeha, who was only level 25, he should have been able to gather any information he wanted, even the color of Leeha’s underwear.

But he wasn’t able to.

“As expected, it was what I thought. What about his achievements?”

“I wasn’t able to see any achievements.”

“Crazy fucker. It’s completely concealed. They must have wanted for him to grow. Did they approach that bastard because they knew that he was Kay’s relative? Did those bitches raise him to get in contact with Kay or put him in our guild in order to get information before stabbing us in the back?”

“I don’t know that.”

“I know. It was a rhetorical question.”

As Sasuke lowered his head, Hyein bit his lips.

“Oh, I saw his title. He is using the title ‘Fearless’.”

“Fearless? What kind of title is that?”

“When I asked around, it was a title that increased attack power. You have to hunt a monster 20 levels higher than you to get it…”

“It appears that those Ramcunts really care about him. Considering the fact that they let him have the last hit.”

Hyein snorted.

The moment he heard Kijung mention his cousin, he was suspicious of something.


A beginner active in Candle Castle… with Musketeer as a job…

Additionally, the Cryomancer Ram Hwajung recently appeared at Candle Castle…

And they scouted a Korean.

Hyein thoroughly studied the blurry photo and investigated rumors related to that event. The people in the photo were clearly Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, and the user across them was clearly a musketeer.

It was from that time that Hyein was able to see the connection. Hyein knew that there couldn’t be many musketeers in the village for beginners.

‘At the starting point of western users, there were times when several users appeared at the same time, but that was during the early days of the game. Now that the pros and cons of each job have been more or less revealed, there aren’t that many anymore. Moreover, when musketeers appear at Candle Castle, the main starting point of Asians, they appear at the same time… Of the Korean beginners currently active, one of them is that musketeer bastard.’

He went to look because he had his suspicions.

He was a guild master and the 8th place in the Korean rankings, he was busy as it is, but there was a reason why he came to give advice.

It was only a doubt at first.

However, after listening to Sasuke’s words, his suspicions were confirmed.

“It must be those bitches. Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon must have approached him and are supporting him.”

“I don’t think we can be certain yet.”

“Hey, think about it logically. He was only level 12 a few days ago, and he wasn’t even hunting, he was on his way to the capital. But today, he is already level 25? He’s even wearing Agonia Oso’s items? It would have been impossible without those bitches supporting him.”

“What if he soloed-”

“Sasuke, think about it. Don’t speak bullshit. How can a level 12 solo the Agonia Oso? No, most importantly, you were not able to check his stats and achievements. It should be because they used a scroll to hide it. Can that stupid-looking guy already buy scrolls and does he look like someone who hides information?”

As Hyein frowned, Sasuke closed his mouth..

He sneakily suggested some assumptions but it did not work on Hyein. There was only one thing he could do now.

“Of course not.”

In fact, Leeha was not even aware that there was a scroll like that.

If one simply thought about it. Ram Hwajung used a scroll that was able to show other people’s information, then it would mean that there is also an item that can do the opposite.


Naturally, all of it had nothing to do with Leeha.

When he added them as friends. Leeha did not even know that Ram Hwajung used the scroll on him.

“Anyway, if he really caught Agonia Oso with the help of the Ram sisters, it is clear that those cunts and that bastard have joined hands. It was said that the Rambitches appeared on the south of Aelstock to hunt the Agonia Oso until recently.”

This was the only plausible explanation in Hyein’s mind.

“……Those girls should be running away now.

Raise the bounty of those Rambitches, and tell Kay to watch that stupid musketeer. Keep in touch as well.”

“Okay.”

“Oh, regularly use location erasing scrolls to hide your location. Even if my location is revealed, yours shouldn’t. They might get suspicious if both of our locations are hidden.”

“I understand.”

“Let’s go.”

Hyein stood up from his chart and stepped into the magic circle once again. Sasuke stood behind Hyein.

Hyein suddenly stopped after lifting his staff.

He pulled both sides of his lips to correct his expression.

“Hmm. Do I look kind?”

“Yes. You give a kind impression.”

“F*ck. You are good at bullshiting. No, I need to speak only kind words. Hmm. Ah.”

Hyein giggled and laughed, and suddenly looked serious.

“Then, let’s go, Sasuke-ssi.”

Both of them disappeared as soon as Hyein struck his staff on the ground.

—

Kijung and Leeha came out of the store.

“Here’s the weapon store. You know where all the stores are now, right?”

“Uhm, wait. Let me mark it.”

“You’re too meticulous. Are you going to do that everywhere you go? Just memorize it.”

Kijung recommended while Leeha took out a map and put a mark on it.

Kijung was surprised that Leeha had a map worth 5 gold and saw that it was well-made and pretty detailed.

However, this was Leeha’s habit.

Identifying, familiarizing and marking of landmarks are the most fundamental and important skills of a sniper.

The thing that he forgot for a while reappeared in Middle Earth.

‘I think there’s also a marking functionality.’

The map had the ability to mark specific locations and even take notes.

“Okay. Done. Even when looking through the map, the market street looked very wide, the beginner village looked better in comparison.”

“They are worlds apart in terms of handling items compared to Candle Castle which is cramped. Kek. Let’s go to the academy now.”

“Ah, have you thought about what I told you earlier?”

“The quest?”

“Yes……. Well. I don’t know the best course of action. I have never heard of a quest like that before. After I got to level 100, I went back to the beginner village and took all the available quests, but I didn’t receive that.”

Kijung tilted his head while walking.

The quest mentioned by Leeha was the ‘Holy Grill Capital Branch’ opening.

Of course, he talked about the benefits of the lunchbox. Anyway, it was not an exaggeration to say that for Leeha, Kijung is the only person he completely trusted.

Of course, he didn’t talk about the Ram Sisters to Kijung.

“They probably wouldn’t even sell it. I haven’t even heard of the lunchbox. If there were, I don’t remember it. Even if there were people who received such a quest, wouldn’t everyone have eaten it? I would have eaten the lunchbox.”

“As expected.”

Kijung’s words intensified the temptation he felt.

‘It is like what Kijung said…… It is obvious from the fact that there is no second branch of Holy Grill in the capital yet… Noone had gotten this quest before, or if they did, the lunchbox was eaten on the way to the capital.’

People did not have to worry about missing out on the chance of getting the invitation for the opening ceremony, which was the reward for completing the quest, or the loss of intimacy, which was the penalty for failure.

‘Isn’t it possible to just don’t return to Candle Castle forever, and find a way to raise your intimacy in the capital by doing quests? That would be easy.’

‘The penalty for failure can be overcome. So, it would be better to eat it!’

‘-is probably what the people who received the quest felt at that time…

So what would happen when you complete it?’

What if Leeha was the first to complete it?

Will there be a second Holy Grill in the capital?

‘Will I change the map? Will it affect the game system?’

While Leeha was confused in his thoughts, Kijung nodded and spoke.

“It is certain that no one has cleared that quest yet. Look at those stats. I’m level 198 right now, and if I ate it, it would be like I’m already level 202. Do you know how hard it is for someone like me to level up 4 times? I do so much in order to hunt for a week but I have a hard time getting to level 200. No, you probably won’t.”

It was a week in real time.

It is equivalent to 35 days in Middle Earth. As Kijung said, for someone like him, it was extremely difficult to raise two levels even when hunting nonstop for a whole month in game.

In other words, the effect of increasing the level 4 times just by eating Golden Eagle Lunchbox is truly enormous.

“It takes that long? Unbelievable.”

“I’m not kidding! If I’m like this, then what about the higher ranked tankers? Right now, if you eat that, you earn more that 100 days of Middle Earth time. Everyone who received it probably ate the lunchbox.”

That can give them a lead on the competition.

For high-level players who search for places that give a higher amount of experience even if it was only 0.1%, the value of gaining additional 4 levels instantly is truly tremendous.

“Hyung, don’t eat it…”

“Huh?”

Kijung lowered his voice.

“That… How about selling it?”

“What? You’re telling me to sell it, and not to eat it? Ah… Is it because of its efficiency?”

‘He just talked about eating it because of the difficulty of leveling up, and suddenly he wants me to sell it?’ However, Leeha could immediately understand what Kijung meant.

“Yes. Eating it right now to raise the stats by 4 levels would, honestly, be crazy. However, that is if hyung is already level 200. You said that the quest will fail in one month right? If you fail, the lunchbox might disappear.”

However, even if Leeha was only level 150 he might have had the urge to eat it.

The problem was, eating the lunchbox at Leeha’s current level is like wasting an expensive item.

Kijung didn’t recommend it.

(To be continued…)
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“I should sell it?”

“Yes! If you ask for our Guild Master’s help, I think you can get introduced to Korea’s top rankers. Shall we test our luck?”

Hyein, the guild master of the Byulcho Guild, was ranked 8th in Korea. When one reaches that high level, it is possible to have connections to the top rankers.

In other words, Kijung’s offer was the most realistic and safe way to get the maximum value if he sold the lunch box.

“You can sell it at as high a price as possible. Hyung, if you sell this one, a lot of people will be interested.”

“Yes, I know. I know.”

If someone else said this, Leeha might have thought that they were trying to scam him, however, because he knew that Kijung was thinking about his wellbeing, he had no doubts.

As Kijung said, if Leeha sold the lunchbox, it would be an enormous help to the cost of living for Leeha and his mother.

Kijung made this suggestion while thinking about the wellbeing of Leeha and his mother.

“Okay. I will need to think about it first.”

However, he didn’t want to make this decision so easily.

A sniper does not pull the trigger immediately just because the target was visible.

“What do you need to think about! Wow, you’re stuffy.”

“Kek, I need to think about it carefully. Oh, I don’t have to tell you to keep this a secret, right? Not even to your guildmates.”

“Eh-hey! I’m a college student. Business Administration! Do you think I don’t know that?”

What was the relationship between business administration and keeping a secret? Leeha just smiled when he saw Kijung making a fuss.

It was then that someone spoke.

“Oh, isn’t it Ha Leeha-ssi?”


“Hmm?”

Leeha and Kijung turned around. Not calling Kijung, but Leeha? When they turned around, they saw a familiar face.

The speaker had shining armor. Now that Leeha looked at it again, it felt like it was much whiter than the full-plate armor that Kijung wore.

“S-Sacred Knights!”

He was flustered.

He knew very well what the Sacred Knights did.

Were the people in charge of defending the capital talking to them? It did not happen often, and it was obvious why.

They looked for criminals, felons or dangerous individuals of the Fibiel Kingdom!

Because that was their main purpose.

Contrary to the tense Kijung, Leeha casually scratched his head.

“Oh, that, your name… … Sir Shindonggaahd… … Was it?”

“Is he someone you know, hyung? Sir Shindong? Is he a user? What? Was there any user among the Sacred Knights?”

Kijung asked hastily.

Right, this Sir Shindong person only pretended to know Leeha. And the two Sacred Knights, who didn’t know what the word Sir Shindong was, had embarrassed expressions.

“Yes?”

“Pfft.”

Digrom, standing next to Sir Syndergaard, laughed. How could they call someone who had the title “Sir” like that? As expected, the Outlanders were strange. He had that thought. And Sir Syndergaard or ,as Leeha called him, sir Shindonggaahd cleared his throat.

“It’s Sir Syndergaard.”

“Oh, sir, sir Syndergaard. Yes.”

Why was the NPC name so difficult to pronounce? Leeha felt his face burning with shame.


What the hell were they doing! How did they come across this situation? Kijung stabbed his side.

“What’s up?”

“What’s up? We were just passing by and greeted you because you were here.”

No way. Leeha was not so stupid.

When Leeha noticed what Sir Syndergard wanted to hear, he quickly said.

“Ah yes. Thank you. If you’re concerned about it, you don’t have to be. I released it in the southern forest.

“I see. That must be why you were able to enter the capital. Thank you for your cooperation. However, we really just wanted to say hello.”

Sir Syndergard laughed after he listened to what Leeha had said.

Was it just really for greetings? Leeha stared at Sir Syndergaard’s face. Syndergaard, who met his eyes, turned to Kijung with a soft smile.

“The person next to you is a Byulcho guild member.”

“Huh? Yes. He is Master Kay.”

“I have often heard the news that you are toiling to stop monsters from attacking in the mountains of the western border. I give you my thanks on behalf of the Fibiel Kingdom.”

As Syndergaard finished speaking, his expression towards Kijung softened a little. In fact, he was only hunting in order to level up.

“Then. Ha Leeha and Master Kay. See you later. Shall we go, sir Digrom.”

Cindergard politely said goodbye to Leeha and Kijung and turned around.

“Waa……. This is the first time that I spoke to the Sacred Knights.”

Kijung opened his mouth as he watched them as they walked away.

“What? It’s the first time?”

“Huh! I passed 150 fame a while ago. Is it because of that? No, he recognized our guild… … Eh? No, it shouldn’t be. Come to think of it, you were talking to that person, hyung! What did you do? What is it?”

“Didn’t I tell you about the “little” bear. I couldn’t enter the capital with it. That’s why I released it yesterday.”


“Aah. So the ones who stopped you were the Sacred Knights? Hey, I am getting mistreated. You can even have a cub.”

Leeha skipped a lot of information in his story.

If Kijung knew that the “little” bear Leeha referred to was at least 50% larger than the normal monster bear, he might have raged. He might go insane if I told him.

“By the way, you have 150 fame?”

“Huh. To increase your fame, you have to hunt hard. It was almost like drying the seeds, so it rose a little. Anyway, there’s nothing easy about this game.”

“Right? ‘I have 80 right now.”

“-uh?”

Huh? Kijung froze.

“How?”

“That…I do not know. I got it when I completed a quest.”

The first 30 were received when he became an honorary guard at Candle Castle. It was received by completing all the hidden quests related to the Black Angus and achieving 100% intimacy with the guards.

Then he got another 50 from the achievement Sacred Knight’s Respect.

In other words, Leeha had never gained fame by hunting monsters.

“No way! Don’t the fame quests start at level 200? I haven’t even done it yet! Did you do something for a mercenary guild or a merchant guild?”

“I know about the fame quest… … No, what should I say?”

“Amazing! Is this really your first time playing Middle Earth? Do you know it’s like an unknown attack pattern?”

“Is there any way to do that?”

Leeha could only scratch his head. Obviously, he did something very different from the normal gameplay. Therefore, Kijung had difficulty understanding it.

For him to understand, Leeha had to explain everything.

And in the first place, the Sacred Knights talked not because of fame, but because of an incident involving the cub, and Leeha’s national contribution.

“Huh… … That’s absurd. It makes sense because it’s completely absurd. I don’t know if you are really great or really unusual. I wonder what else you will do in the future.”

“Don’t expect anything. I just want to level up fast and make money.”

“That’s right. I see. You can level up quickly from here. It’s better than Candle Castle.”

“Here?”

They stopped walking at that moment.

“Yes. here.”

He pointed his finger. A sign called Brown Bess Musket Academy caught his eye.

“Wow! This is the best musketeer academy on the continent? … The place is so… …

“Is it shabby?”

“Very.”

It wasn’t what he expected.

“Would 2 gold be enough?”

“Oh, right. Thank you, Kijung-ah.”

Now that gunpowder and bullets could be purchased at wholesale prices, the two gold given by Kijung would be a huge amount of money.

If converted to real world money, it would be around 200,000 won, so it’s a considerable amount. Leeha was very grateful to his cousin.

“This should help with all of your urgent issues. You wouldn’t need to sell your armor, shoes, and cap to other people for no reason. You should use it as much as you can before selling it. And there is nothing to be grateful for. You can pay it back later.”

“Of course. I will pay you back as soon as possible.”

“Tsk, hyung! Don’t say that. Oh, and be careful. That fire bear item… … It’s true that you were the one who caught it, but if the raid members at that time got to know, you would get into trouble.”

“Trouble?”

“Yes, it’s okay if they just want to talk, but there is a possibility that they may bother you.

When it comes to consideration, they would have none for Leeha.

He only attacked after the raid team got completely decimated. He didn’t even join the raid team in the first place, so he had no obligation to give the items out.

However, human psychology did not work that way.

“It’s something special.”

“I know you’ll do well, but if there’s anything, whisper. If you are in a hurry, I will come immediately.

“Thank you.”

“Thank you. I will also benefit when hyung does well. Heh, I have to go hunting again after completing the quest.”

“quest?”

“Huh. I came to see tangled things, but I also came here because I have work to handle in the capital.”

The secret to being adherent is not to waste time. Kijung smiled and raised his finger to point at a building.

A magnificent religious building, fenced with high walls, caught Leeha’s eye.

“What is that? A church?”

“Kukkok, it’s similar. It’s the temple of ‘Apollo’. Jobs that use white magic learn skills and receive quests over there.”

“Speaking of which, that isn’t the academy, is it?”

“It is.”

Leeha once again looked at the Brown Bess Musket Academy.

Compared to the Temple of Apollo, it was less impressive than a warehouse.

How old was the wooden nameplate that the words ‘Brown Bess’ could not be seen properly.

“The difference is huge.”

“The size of the training center was said to be proportional to the number of users. There aren’t many musketeers, so they won’t need a large building. When the number of users increases, the building expands or something.

“Sigh… I don’t like the way things are going.”

Leeha looked at the size of the building.

It’s similar to when kids discriminate against other kids by asking them’,Is your parents’ house an apartment or villa?’ Leeha felt it was a bit cruel because Goople made it so realistic.

“Hey. The temple where professions like Paladins, templars, Priests, sisters and Monks all share, You shouldn’t compare it with a single-occupation range dealer like hyung.”

“Okay… … I know, it just feels like that. Thanks anyway. Goodbye and see you again next time.”

“Kek. Anyway, work hard, hyung!”

pong-! With that sound, dirt rose from the ground.

At the same time, it quickly blew away as if a bullet was fired.

“Wow…”

Leeha was incredibly surprised by the Templar’s sprinting skills. How frustrating it must have been to keep pace with Leeha.

“Well……. then.”

Leeha took out the letter of introduction that had been folded inside his bag.

『Brown Bess Musket Academy.』

Whether he liked it or not, Leeha would need to base his activities here in the future, so there was no need to think of it in a bad light from the beginning.

“Shall I enter.”

It was no exaggeration to say that it was at this moment that he would be reborn as a real musketeer.

(To be continued…)
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“Anybody home?”

Creeeeaak.

The wooden corridor cried whenever Leeha stepped on it.

It had a dark interior with neither lights nor windows. Was this an academy or a haunted house?

“Anybody here?”

“Middle Earth really did everything right for Musketeer-”

Click, Leeha felt the touch of cold metal touching the back of his head.

Inside the creepy house, he got surprised by a person. He didn’t even feel any presence. It felt worse than a haunted house.

“Don’t move. Don’t speak. Just breathe. If you don’t follow, I will blast your head.”

Gun?

Suddenly, his nape felt cold. It felt thicker than a thumb. Cold metal dug into his hair and touched his scalp.

Gun, no, to be more accurate, it was a musket. Leeha did not look back or answer.

He didn’t know who it was, but he knew that there was a very skilled hunter behind him.

With the slightest bit of movement, he might get shot.

‘He is not an ordinary marksman……Where and how was he hiding?’

It was said that even beasts won’t notice a perfectly disguised sniper. Leeha felt that the surprise attack that he was not able to detect is comparatively at that level.

He was extremely vigilant upon entering the academy, however, he didn’t really feel anything.

“You can only move your mouth. If other parts of your body move, I will blast your head off.”


It seemed the person really liked to blow heads off. Of course, Leeha planned to follow the orders as much as he could.

“I understand.”

“Who are you?”

“I am Ha Leeha, a musketeer.”

After Leeha answered, he could hear the sound of breathing. Isn’t this unbelievable? The voice was rather thick. He thought that the person was pretty much a middle-aged person.

“Who sent you?”

“Nobody sent me, however, candle Castle’s Guard Captain Jiat gave me an introduction letter.”

“Slowly go forward three steps and turn around. If you walk more than that, you die.”

With four steps it would affect his accuracy.

With two steps, the muzzle could be grabbed using an outstretched hand.

The person thoroughly understood how to use a musket.

Leeha, while admiring it, walked three steps and turned around.

“Put the letter of introduction on the floor.”

“Uh, my musket is not loaded, would it be okay for me to hold my musket?”

Leeha slowly leaned over while holding his musket, looking at the man.

He was wearing a wide-brimmed, feathered hat, so Leeha could not see his eyes, but he could see that the man had a thick beard.

The man’s upper lip shook.

“I guess you have shot a few times. In that case, take three steps back.”

“If I stepped back twice, I’d die… right?”

“……Seeing how cheeky you are, I realize you are a stranger.”


“Yes. A musketeer stranger.”

Leeha carefully stepped back three steps.

He felt like he was dealing with an extremely nervous cat, but at least he felt that the bearded man in a hat wasn’t a bad guy.

“Candle Castle’s Honorary Guard. You are also able to shoot a target 100m away……”

The bearded man in a hat picked up the letter of introduction and quickly read it and then looked at Leeha from top to bottom. The eyes hidden under the brim of the hat flashed.

‘He can also grasp my achievements in an instant. Is it because he is an NPC?’

He was also an NPC that knew guns very well.

If he was an ordinary robber, he would have told him to drop his weapon first. However, knowing that Leeha’s musket wasn’t loaded, he just told him to hold it.

Muskets that were not filled with gunpowder took time to reload no matter how fast one was. In fact, he could have told him to throw it to the ground.

Why didn’t he then?

‘He seemed to like guns quite a bit. It seems he keeps the adage to treat a gun like a lover.’

Leeha suddenly remembered his military days and burst into laughter. He was pretty nervous, but the bearded man knew muskets pretty well and he must be a gun enthusiast.

“Is there something funny?”

“No. I laughed because I thought that you liked muskets as much as I did. I’m sorry if that made you get in a bad mood.”

Leeha replied with a smile. The man alternately looked at Leeha and the letter of introduction.

And he lowered the musket right away.

“Follow me.”

“Yes?”

The man went into the room. Raising his musket onto his shoulder, Leeha hoped that his laugh helped him make a good impression…

Inside the dark room, there was plenty of furniture, such as cabinets and desks. Could it be that he didn’t turn on the light because of his work? Staying in the dark, the man sat in the chair behind the desk.


“Sit down.”

“Okay.”

Seeing the furniture arrangements and seats, was he the director of the academy? The camouflage and ambush skills were just like a skilled musketeer, but to be sure, Leeha asked.

“Is there no one else?”

“Are you looking for a girl at the academy?”

“No, no. Still, this is an academy, there should be someone in charge of business…… Someone who could offer a cup of tea-.”

“Academy? Tea?”

The eyebrows of the man sitting in front of Leeha wriggled. To be precise, the place where the eyebrows should be, wriggled.

He took off his broad-brimmed feathered hat. He had a large burn scar on his face and there were no eyebrows in its place.

“Academy…… Isn’t this place like an academy? Teaching people how to use a musket?…”

“Don’t say anything that smells like milk and be quiet.”

“Ah…… Is this not an academy?”

It wasn’t easy for Leeha to ask the question with someone like a soldier in front of him. The air and the atmosphere.

He had experienced enough of this feeling.

‘When I just joined the army……. Tea time with the master sergeant after getting the first batch? It was something close to that feeling- right. It’s the army. This is not an academy, this is like the army.’

When Leeha thought of being in the army, he rather felt comfortable.

Was it okay to think of it as a training camp? He thought of it as the NCO’s school – NCO -〉 Non-Commissioned Officers!

“Jiat had high praises for you.”

“Is that so?”

As soon as he was conscious of being in the army, his tone immediately changed.

Did he immediately notice that Leeha’s attitude changed? The man raised his eyes and looked at Leeha.

“He puts in great effort, I mean, he is always eager to spare no effort for Candle Castle. He wrote that you were a talented individual and that you would be a great knight that could support the Fibiel Kingdom. I have never received such a letter of introduction from him.”

There were only a few people who came, but the bearded man did not say that.

“That’s a relief.”

Leeha thought of the Guard Captain. The NPC who gave him a hug before he left.

The 100% intimacy and Honorary Guard certainly made the difference in these places. Will it go well thanks to Guard Captain Jiat?

“It’s only words. What good would that be?”

“Come again?”

It only took three seconds for his expectation to shatter.

Leeha had a flustered expression, but he was not concerned.

“Effort is useless. What is the use of hard work for a musketeer? Talent……. Everything depends only on talent. Effort? Hahaha, it’s not irrelevant. Reloading can be shortened through effort.”

The man criticized bitterly.

But Leeha clearly knew what he meant. Shooting a gun. Shooting and hitting.

In fact, it does not have anything to do with practice and effort. Of course, there are things that could be improved through effort and practice, but Leeha seemed to understand when the man spoke about talent.

“I think I understand what you mean.”

“You understand?”

“That’s right.”

“Interesting. Are you proud you were able to hit a target 100m away?”

“No.”

Leeha was sincerely sympathetic.

Bullets moving through the air, a sense of unity with the gun, and the subtle sensation of hitting the target through the small movement of the index finger.

Before the bullet leaves the gun, every minute movement can mean several meters of difference from the target.

It was not a matter of effort.

It is the feeling and sensation that the man in front of Leeha was talking about.

Moreover, Middle Earth did not have a rangefinder, nor did it have observers and scopes.

You can not be a sniper unless you are gifted with talent by the heavens.

“If you understand, it would be easier to talk.”

“Yes?”

“Let’s pull some fire once.”

The man stood up and carried his musket.

‘Pulling fire…’

Leeha understood, it was a slang used when firing an arquebus. In other words, the man wanted to test Leeha.

Leeha stood up from his seat and followed.

‘By the way… isn’t this academy something that you could enter unconditionally as long as you are level 10 or higher? What would happen if I fail?’

I won’t become a trainee?

『Let’s take a look at your skills』

Description : Musket Academy Head ‘Browless’ wants to test your guts and skills. He’s looking at you with anticipation but you don’t have to be scared. There are no penalties for not meeting his expectations. You are only a beginner musketeer.

Content : Browless’s exam

Reward : ??

Condition of Failure : Failing to pass the challenge

Penalty for Failure : Denial of admission to Brown Bess Musket Academy

– Do you accept it?

A notification window appeared in front of Leeha, while following the instructor wearing a feathered hat.

‘Is his name really Browless.’

People really live up to their names. Of course, he didn’t have eyebrows because of the burn and didn’t do it on purpose but Leeha felt the tension getting relieved because of the strange matching name.

“Are you nervous?”

“No. I’m looking forward to it.”

Leeha read the notification window. Browless, far from being kind, couldn’t teach him, so he had to get hints through the quest window.

‘If he didn’t tell me about the exam and failed, I won’t be able to enter? It doesn’t even show the reward.’

If he failed, he wouldn’t be admitted. It was too harsh.

Similar to Kijung going to his ‘Academy’ to perform a quest, job-related training centers are a place where users have to stop by until they reach level 200.

But the penalty is not getting admitted?

‘The description is quite simple. Does this mean that I should not accept it?’

Was it because he had gotten to the unkind world Middle Earth quests now? Leeha immediately realized that the correct answer to the quest was by “Abandoning” it.

Taking a step back in order to take a step forward was perhaps one of the most important virtues for a shooter, the quest might be in order to test it.

Although there was a penalty for failure, there was no penalty for giving up.

‘I just need to give up…. I’m interested in what it is. It also takes guts to not take on a challenge.

Recklessly taking on a challenge is actually the worst course of action for a sniper. Because recklessly taking on a challenge can not only cause harm to a sniper but will also cause harm to his allies.’

‘Right, got it. That is the correct answer. However, it’s not an answer I want to choose.’

Leeha also wanted to take a shot. No, it was not about taking a shot. When it comes to shooting, he was confident in being able to beat anyone in Korea.

‘It is clear that it takes guts to objectively look at one’s skills and know when to give up. Isn’t it true the other way around?’

It also takes guts to take risks and challenge yourself because you know your abilities.

Above all, Leeha hated giving up.

(To be continued…)
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“Haha”

Browless laughed at Leeha’s expression. It was as if he knew what Leeha was thinking. As Leeha came out of the building, he saw a small yard that looked like a training ground. The building was shabby, but the space for training was excellent.

“This is the training ground. If you fail, you will never be able to use it again.”

He spoke with great pressure on purpose.

“Is that so?”

Leeha spoke calmly.

The elongated training ground resembled a training ground. There was a shooter’s seat, and a scarecrow with holes in several places was installed as a target on the other side.

‘40m. The default distance?’

If the combat assistance system was turned on, the musketeer’s default range was 40m.

“Piercing, bull’s-eye, rapid fire. What do you choose? If you fail, you will get expelled immediately. However, if you give up now, I’ll teach you the basics.”

It was Browless’ last act of kindness, or rather, his last warning. After answering, there was no second chance.

‘What’s piercing?’

Does it mean hitting two targets with one bullet? I am getting tested on a musket, but how does it pierce?

‘Except the one that I don’t know of, what’s left is bullseye and rapid fire…’

Leeha did not worry much. Anyway, he wasn’t proficient with rapid fire. However, if it was bullseye, then he was confident. What if it’s only 40m away?

“I choose bullseye.”

“Bullseye is it? This should be good.”

Browless took off his hat. His burn scars exposed in the sun looked even more terrible.

“Can I ask one question?” “What is it?”

Browless stopped pulling out the feathers from his hat.


“How many people have taken the test until now?”

Browless quietly spread his two fingers.

“Two people? Only two people tried it?”

“Try? There are only two people who passed.”

“What?”

Only two people succeeded? Is that all of them? Isn’t the default accuracy 50% at 40m? Leeha didn’t understand so he asked again.

“Then, how many challengers were there in total?”

“Well.”

“Yes?”

“I do not remember any cowards or failures.”

He was still pressured to give up. He did not need to give any consideration to Leeha. However, if he gives up, he will get laughed at and be branded as a coward.

If you fail, you are a failure, and if you give up, you’re a coward. Both of those terms were annoying.

Was it to shake his emotions and test his composure?

Leeha just wanted to pass the test. And he had an additional purpose, and that was to see Browless’ astonished expression.

“However, I remember that there were well over a thousand of failures. And there were more cowards than failures.”

“Thousands? The odds are not that great.”

He said that there were more than a thousand people who failed. Even if it was just a thousand, the passing rate is 2/1000. Only 0.2%. However, in Middle Earth with 100 million cumulative users, the number of musketeers is only a thousand.

Some of them might have already quit the game, but if the ones who had given up were included, there would be at least 5,000 people who have come to this place.

‘Two thousandths? Wouldn’t that be a 0.04% success rate? Why? This is the only shooting range, but why are there so few?’

Leeha didn’t understand. After answering Leeha’s question, Browless walked to the other end of the shooting range where the target was 40m.


He turned around and looked at Leeha.

‘What is he trying to do?’

And he started walking again. He passed the 40m mark, to the place where there were sandbags piled up. It was already 43m.

He continued to walk without stopping. The road outside the shooting range, where there was a big tree. 48m.

‘Where is he going?’

He didn’t stop. Browless’ steps didn’t stop until he reached the wall of the musket academy.

It was a whopping 55m away from where Leeha stood.

There, he saw small movements in preparation for the exam.

After a while, Browless went away from the wall and Leeha knew what ‘bullseye’ meant.

‘Surely… Still, I need to wait. In case it really is.’

Leeha was correct, this was a test that was too much to be true.

However, Browless just walked back to the next position without saying a word.

Putting his hat on again, the only part that was not covered was his mouth.

“Begin.”

Attached to the wall 55m away was a feather removed from his hat.

The feather was the size of a little finger.

“Are you telling me to hit that?”

“Did you think that I took my hat off and walked over there just to pose?”

“Well, of course not.”

He just wanted to make sure but he got reprimanded hard. Leeha was 55m away from the target.


He was a sniper that didn’t just catch a rabbit 100m away, but caught a golden eagle 100m above. As stated in the description of ‘Sniper’s Etymology’, it was an extremely difficult achievement that only one player got aside from Leeha.

In other words, the musket has a terrible hit rate, still to get it meant that one had the sense and experience.

‘By the way… The size of the target was different!’

They are the size of a dog or a cat when seen up close. When the Golden Eagle was 100m into the sky, its actual size was around 10m.

However, what about the feather now? Was it 10cm? To put it 55m away and hit it?

In other words, the feather 55m away right now is harder to hit than the golden eagle that was 100m away.

It was smaller.

It looked much smaller.

‘That’s crazy…’

Leeha tried to focus his eyes, but he could not see it properly.

There was only a blue dot on the wall that could not be seen properly and he was having doubts if he was seeing things properly.

He was barely able to recognize it because he saw the feathers attached in Browless’ hat, and if he moved or if the color changed even a little due to the refraction of light, he would not be able to see it anymore.

‘There were two people who managed to pass this?’

No, he said that there was piercing and rapid fire, so it might not be two. If the bullseye is this difficult, what about the other tests? They must be ridiculous tests as well.

‘For rapid fire, maybe they need 4 or 5 shots per minute. What kind of task did they do?’

Whether it was rapid fire or piercing, it must have been definitely crazy.

And the one who was about to do such a crazy task was Leeha.

Leeha, who was straining his eyes wide open, looked at his target and suddenly said to Browless.

“Excuse me. Can you give me a moment to prepare?”

“Take your time.”

Now that he had time, what could he do? However, the NPC did not know what users could change.

He needed to maximize his senses.

Although Leeha would not be able to enlarge the feathers that are 55m away, at least he could control his movements as much as possible.

And Leeha knew one sensation that he could change.

‘Adjust assimilation rate.’

『Adjusting assimilation rate. Current setting: 20%.』

30%? 40%? Will it matter if he only changed it that much?

‘Raise assimilation rate to 50%.’

He wanted to raise it to 100%, however if it exceeded 50%, users would not be able to adjust it at will. He could raise the assimilation rate to 50% at most.

『Changing Assimilation Rate. Current setting: 50%.』

『Excessive adjustment to Assimilation Rate will interfere with the playing experience.』

『Goople will not be responsible for any in-game or external responsibility for the user changing the Assimilation Rate. This requires user approval to continue. Do you agree?』

‘Agree!’

Trrng, a strange feeling went through his spine and reached his head. After the feeling disappeared, Leeha walked to the shooting range.

The leather shoes that touched the sole of his feet. The sun that hit his skin. He also tried moving his back and swung his toes.

‘It definitely feels more…. Huu, it’s really amazing. Now I want to try 100%.’

He thought about how it would hurt getting bitten a ‘little’ by the bear cub right now but Leeha ignored it.

It was not the time to think of other things.

“Huu, huu.”

He took the gunpowder out of his bag. Even the texture of paper felt different than before, and Leeha began to quickly reload.

“Ohh. Tap loading.”

Browless, who watched Leeha reload, let out a little admiration.

“But I’m glad you didn’t choose rapid fire. If you chose that, you would have failed 100%.”

“I-is that so?”

Obviously the last statement wasn’t a compliment. He just admired it for a moment.

It was a fairly difficult loading method, but it looked trivial to Browless.

It meant that his reload speed could get faster in the future! Leeha felt better.

After he finished reloading in a relaxed and delicate manner, Leeha leaned carefully against the shooting wall. He posed in a stable position with his knees slightly bent.

However, it shouldn’t be about maintaining posture.

He needed to aim toward the 10cm target from 55m away.

Because it was a situation where he had to fire in an unknown location because the target cannot be seen.

‘It’s okay.’

One missed only when their pulse was unstable.

‘I can do it.’

Because it is similar to shooting at a target 250m away. Having a feel for it should be enough.

‘Rifles and muskets are incomparable.’

Browless watched as Leeha leaned over with his eyes on the sight.

He induced fear to frighten the test takers and make them give up, however, that did not hinder the ones who took on the challenge. No, it was enough to see their guts.

However, it was under the premise that they could walk the talk.

Browless wouldn’t tolerate braggarts that weren’t good enough.

As Leeha had guessed, Browless is also a musketeer and was the director of the Musket Academy.

Of course, his desire was to have a lot of excellent students. As such, he wanted the young man in front of him named Leeha to succeed.

‘Let’s see. Let’s see.’

In fact, he couldn’t see the target well. However, Leeha convinced himself that he could see it clearly.

‘I can see it well. Targets that you can see tend to appear bigger. It’s really big.’

It was very small.

“Huuu…”

Leeha slowly controlled his breathing.

With his slowed breathing, it also caused his heart to beat slowly. With the musket’s butt pressed against his shoulder, his index finger moved slowly.

Just before he pressed the trigger, he did not forget to say a word.

‘Calm Mind.’

Huuuk-. His skill activated. His armpit tightened, and his body stiffened.

The stillness seemed to have stopped even his pulse.

Taaang—-.

A gunshot rang loudly.

(End of Volume 2…)
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Chapter 51

“Oh!” ‘Yes!’

Browless’ exclamation and Leeha’s thoughts came out simultaneously. Leeha looked at him in surprise

‘He was able to see it? When he wasn’t even shooting himself?’

Leeha looked at Browless. His eyes were still fixed to the wall 55m away.

‘Although ever so slightly, he spoke faster than me.’

The feather attached to the wall 55m away was the size of a millet.

Whether the feather was hit or not was not something that can be judged just by concentration and ordinary eyesight. Leeha admired Browless once again.

“Don’t you want to check it first?”

“Haha, you’re funny. A pretty funny kid came after a while.”

Browless snorted, but it was the funniest expression he had ever heard in the academy.

The corners of his mouth were raised by about 2mm.

“The test…?”

“Do I have to tell you?”

Browless put on his hat and walked towards the academy.

“Follow me.”

As soon as he finished speaking, Pabam-! A sound rang out. A notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『You have completed the quest ‘Let’s take a look’.』

『Intimacy with Brown Bess Academy’s director, Browless, increased by 30%.』

『Achievement: Three musketeers (B+)』


Congratulations! You passed Browless’ test. The academy was co-founded by the three most famous musketeers in the history of Fibiel Kingdom. You will get recognition just by passing the test of one of its founders, Browless.

Maybe you can become one of the Three Musketeers of the next generation?

Reward: Agility +15, continental Reputation +20

You are the third registrant of the achievement 『Three Musketeers』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.

Effect: Agility +30, continental Reputation +40

“Amazing.”

Leeha couldn’t move while looking at the notification window.

What kind of achievement is this great? Agility + 15? Reputation + 20?

‘Besides Hall of fame…’

Third registrant. Leeha immediately understood.

‘Two more people have passed the exam. Those two and me. There are three people who passed this? By the way, what does the next generation of the Three Musketeers mean?’

Could it have something to do with the name of the achievement, the Three Musketeers? However, Leeha did not have the time to think about it. It didn’t even matter whether he was first or third.

In any case, the effect of the achievement was increased by 200%.

Leeha was ecstatic.

Besides, this is something that only musketeers can get. Because it can only be cleared by receiving a quest from Browless.

The passing rate of 0.04% is definitely abysmal.

‘So, is that the reason the reward was hidden? Well, if it said that they would have given such a great reward, everyone would have tried, even though most of them would have failed. If so, they would not have been able to enter the academy and they would have great difficulty playing the game.

Wasn’t the reward hidden for the beginners?

“What are you spacing out for? Come in.”


“Yes! I’m coming now!” Leeha quickly grabbed his musket and ramrod.

Then he quickly ran into the academy, chasing one of the three most famous musketeers in Fibiel Kingdom, Browless.

“Did you have fun?”

“Yes, it was really fun.”

Leeha followed Browless back into the room and could stop laughing.

If he was in the army he would have been reprimanded, however, this was not the army and above all, it seemed that Browless was also in a good mood.

Even his treatment changed.

A cup of hot steaming tea was placed in front of Leeha.

“You have talent. You deserve to be arrogant.”

“No. I just got lucky.”

Now he understood everything. He thought the Browless was a scary instructor.

However, wasn’t he one of the founders of the Musket Academy?

Above all else, he should have a tremendous reputation.

The achievement also described it. It said that he was one of the ‘most famous’ musketeers in the history of Fibiel Kingdom.

‘If I think about it, it made sense. He would know much sooner than I do if I hit the target 55m away.’

Leeha was an army sniper in reality, but in Middle Earth, Browless would be better than him.

Of course, when it came to handling muskets, he had to be better than Leeha.

“Luck is also a skill. You have to be calm enough to be lucky.”

“Is that so?”

“Maintaining a calm mind can make you think flexibly, and flexible thinking can lead-.”


“It leads to agility.”

“…Haha.”

Browless just laughed. The basic skill of a marksman is agility.

When and how to shoot.

In order to have agility, one had to be calm. It’s not agile to rush, it’s stupid.

“If you came even a year earlier, you would have been worth raising as one of the Three Musketeers who succeeded us… It’s a shame.”

“Three Musketeers?”

Browless did not answer Leeha’s question. He quietly shook his head and took a sip of tea.

“It’s a long story for a rookie.”

“Okay. I understand.”

Leeha did not ask any other question. Seeing that the corner of Browless’ lips returned to their original state, he decided that it was not a story to be touched in the current situation.

Whether it was intimacy or level, once certain conditions are met, he would willingly tell the story. Perhaps it was a story related to the Three Musketeers who founded the Brown Bess Musket Academy, like Leeha’s achievement since it said ‘us’.

“Right, I don’t have to teach you the basics of reloading a musket.”

Browless opened the drawer, took out a bag and threw it at Leeha.

Catch, Leeha lightly caught the leather bag that flew in the air. He felt a stronger force than expected.

“What is this?”

“Open it and see.”

『You have acquired 200 Black Powder.』

『You have acquired 200 Iron Bead Bullets.』

“Amazing…”

200 sets of gunpowder and bullets. He got the authority to purchase from Bob for 4 coppers for a bag of gunpowder and 1 copper for a bullet. If he bought 200 sets from Bob, it would cost 10 silver. He got 2 gold from Kijung, but for Leeha 10 silver was still a lot of money.

“Why so suddenly…?”

“Didn’t I just tell you? You don’t need any basic training.”

Only after he heard Browless’ words did Leeha realize.

It was a basic training quest reward!

He didn’t need to do the basic training quest, so the basic training quest was automatically passed and the quest reward was given.

“Thank you, director-nim.”

“There is no need to thank me. From now on, you will have more work to do as a member of the academy. You can start with spider hunting.”

『Lightless Forest – 1』 Description: No light enters the forest west of the capital, aelstock. Get rid of the spiders that block the light from entering the forest.

Description: Red Spider (0 / 30)

Reward: Increased intimacy with Browless by 10%,

Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution +10, 30 Copper.

‘Of course.’

It was only the start of the quest. Because he had a hard time coming to the academy, although not something grand like an entrance ceremony, Leeha imagined that he would be congratulated or something similar…

Even if it wasn’t grandiose, he had thought that way.

‘Well, passing a test is just passing it. Thinking about it, he is the kind of person that put a gun to the back of my head when I first entered the academy…’

Leeha looked at the quest content. It was one of the monsters he tried hunting while on the way to the capital.

‘But now, I am required to hunt it…’

It was a monster that could be caught around level 15. Leeha is now at a whopping level 25.

He had to go and catch a spider? It’s a linked quest, but it would be a waste of time.

However, he could not abandon the quest. He just needed to increase his efficiency a bit.

And Leeha knew how to.

‘Activate Bargaining.’

『Bargaining skill has been activated.』

“Aren’t bats also living in that forest?”

“That’s right.”

“Then, what if I catch spiders and bats at the same time while I’m there?”

“…Aren’t you getting a little cocky because I praise you a little?”

“No, not at all. I am not being cocky. I am not that young to confuse arrogance and confidence. However, if you ask me, I should be able to do it in one day.”

Leeha’s eyes shone as he looked at Browless.

He actually had a higher level than recommended for hunting spiders, so it wasn’t arrogance. Browless looked at Leeha’s eyes.

“Okay- then.”

Browless nodded. And Leeha did not miss that momentary gap.

“I just want to ask you something.”

He did not use Bargaining just to get a couple of quests at the same time. Leeha wanted to go one step further.

However, if he said ‘But there’s a condition’, he knew that the cynical director would not like it…

Leeha carefully selected his words.

“What.”

Browless had a cold expression.

“If I succeed, can you teach me a skill?”

It would have been a shame to not bring up getting a skill from one of the most famous musketeers in Fibiel Kingdom while Bargaining skill was activated.

Above all, skills are not something that can be learned for free.

As he had already seen in the community, even if the job is the same, the method for acquisition would be different.

There were cases where users are left behind for having the mindset that they can simply buy a skill book.

‘Kijung gave me money and I can do anything with it. Armor is not a problem at the moment. The problem is skill.’

After Leeha finished speaking, Browless did not speak for a long time. What kind of expression did he make under his hat?

Was he proud of the new musketeer that just joined the academy or did he think of him as arrogant?

Leeha did not repeat his words.

There was no way that Browless did not hear him or that he misunderstood. It was frivolous to repeat your words just because you cannot stand the quiet atmosphere.

He quietly drank his tea and waited for Browless’ reply.

Gulp, while he was sipping and enjoying the taste of black tea. Trrrng- A notification window popped up and the contents of the quest changed.

『Quest content has been changed.』

『Quest conditions have been changed.』

『Lightless Forest』

Description: Exterminate the spiders that block the light from entering the forest and the vampire bats that have no day and night restrictions due to the spiders.

‘He’s an interesting kid. Will he be able to do it? With his reload speed right now, he might just barely make it. I can test if he has the qualities to be one of the next generation of the Three Musketeers.

Content: Red Spider’s leg (0 / 30), Vampire Bat’s tooth (0 / 30)

Reward: 30% Increase in Intimacy with Browless, 1 Silver, Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution +20, skill: Precise Hand Technique.

Time Limit: 12 Hours.

Penalty for failure: 50% Decrease Intimacy with Browless, continental Reputation -20.

“How about this? Hunt spiders and bats within 12 hours and give me evidence of it.”

Browless did not make eye contact with Leeha. Leeha quickly read the quest window.

‘Damn! He’s not even giving me a whole day? Besides, he’s giving me Fibiel Kingdom’s National Contribution but it will decrease Continental Reputation.

I would need to travel for 2 to 3 hours to get to the hunting ground. If I exclude the round trip time, I only have around 6 hours of hunting time. He only had 6 hours to reorganize and hunt and no time to do anything else.

‘And it’s dinner time now. In other words, I would need to finish hunting tonight and return tomorrow morning.’

Additionally, the previous quest was only hunting. But this time?

I need to collect items that drop through hunting. I have to hunt more than 30 bats and 30 spiders.

In a forest where no light enters.

However, the skill reward is pretty enticing.

Anyway, it was the result of using a high risk high return skill.

The curiosity and expectation Browless put on him, and the phrase that he could be one of the next generation of the “Three Musketeers” motivated Leeha.

– Would you like to accept?

“I’ll be back.”

Leeha stood up while holding his musket. From the moment he pressed yes, the clock started running.

Browless smiled as he stared at Leeha’s back leaving the room.

(To be continued…)
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Chapter 52

“I need to hurry.”

Leeha left the academy and unfolded his map.

The forest in the western part of Aelstock was known as the Lightless Forest.

It was the first hunting spot that he had investigated in the community, so he knew its approximate location.

‘But now, I need a more detailed route.’

How long would it take when one started from the fastest gate of the capital? And what part of the forest was the most efficient way to enter and exit?

How far it was.

He could not even waste a second.

‘When I think about it, I wasn’t even able to sell the items of the users that died to the Agonia Oso. Would the weight be okay?’

The first raid team of Petal Kim killed by the Brown bear.

There were still equipment and sundries that had dropped when those people died. He should have dealt with the items while he was with Kijung, however, they didn’t have time to do that because they were busy moving around.

‘Anyway, I would be picking up about 60 sundries, so the weight should be okay. The price of gunpowder is stable, so I hit the jackpot!’

He got a whopping 200 sets.

Leeha smiled and moved forward.

It normally took 2 hours to walk to the Lightless Forest, but thanks to the Runner’s High skill, Leeha could get there in less than an hour if he consumed his stamina constantly.

‘First of all, to the West Gate.’

Leeha moved towards the West Gate of Aelstock. The only gate he had been through was the South Gate, but there was nothing special about the West Gate .

There were people who went out of the West Gate to reach the hunting ground and merchants who made transactions with such people.

“We are looking for a spider and bat party! My name is Eli and I am level 16!”


“Who wants to go to the Orc Village? I’m going to the Sentinel Mountains〜 and depending on the situation, I might go to the Watching Peak! I’m level 80!”

“I need two dealers for the Watching Peak Troll! Only those over level 130 can apply for the party~ We can use scroll and fly right away.”

“Come on! Saber Tiger! Saber Tiger! We need an experienced tanker. Or someone who will go all the way to Picella Village.”

The only difference was that the level of users were more diverse.

At the South Gate , there were more users who were level 50 or lower, but at the West Gate , there were also level 80 users looking for a party.

And one of the shouts pricked Leeha’s ears.

‘Watching Peak?’

It was just one of the many shouts. Then he suddenly remembered.

‘Where did I hear that… ah! Ah! Friend Window!’

Ram Hwayeon. Ram Hwajung!

Ram Sisters’ location, which he checked through the friends list while he was on the way to the capital. It was definitely Watching Peak.

Is it near Aelstock? I guess it wasn’t?

Leeha continued running nonstop.

While running, he scanned the map, but Watching Peak was not visible even in the Fibiel Kingdom’s official map. Only at the western end of the map, at the edge of the Sentinel Mountain could it be seen.

‘Is it a border area? It’s pretty far, isn’t it?’

It was the westernmost part of Aelstock.

There was a small village in the middle of Sentinel Mountain and a fortress just below the Sentinel Mountain. It was highly likely that it was one of the places of conflict with monsters or enemy armies.

‘If they are looking for a party in an orc village, is it a monster invasion area?’

In fact, he was not really interested before. No, he was not.

Until he heard Kijung’s story, Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon were just a chance encounter, and he never thought much about what would happen after that.


However, he was rather interested now…

Why the hell are they there?

If the trolls appearing on Watching Peak also come in pairs, the level limit would be around 130. If they hunted the orcs that spawn on shore, it would be around level 80.

The monster level was low for Ram Hwajung but absurdly high for Ram Hwayeon.

So why did they go together?

‘Is Hwajung giving Hwayeon a bus ride?’

It seemed likely. Otherwise, there was absolutely no reason for the sisters to be together there.

If they were in a party, there won’t be any distribution of experience due to the high level gap, and if they were not in a party, even if Ram Hwajung hunts alone, she won’t get that much of an exp.

Therefore, there was a high possibility that she only used magic with weak damage and let Hwayeon take the last hit.

‘Like when she froze the Black Angus before. Even when it was encased in ice, Ram Hwayeon only needed to cast fire magic from afar.’

He didn’t know it, but it was incredibly fast.

Isn’t she already level 50? Others would have been unable to reach that level even if they hunted for a whole month.

Anyway, it was a little bit embarrassing. However, rather than being envious, Leeha felt his fighting spirit rise.

‘Just wait. I will chase you right away.’

Leeha’s steps became faster.

“Huu, huu, huuu. 45 minutes less.”

As soon as Leeha arrived at the edge of the Lightless Forest, he opened the quest window and checked the time. He hadn’t even started hunting yet, but he had used more time than he had planned.

There were users who couldn’t catch bears. In other words, mages and long-ranged dealers gathered around the edge of the forest caught Leeha’s eyes. He listened to their conversation.

“Haa, I’m not doing well. I can’t hunt.”

“The mages can only cast when they get close. Dealers should deal as much damage as possible.”


“However, if you get too close , you can’t cast. I was looking for bats…”

“Archers have it rough too. Spiders are very sensitive. Spiders hide behind their webs… and can’t be attacked.”

“I’m going crazy. I came here after dying while hunting a bear…”

“It’s night now. By the way, spiders weaken during the day, so we can try again at that time. Shall we wait until morning?”

At a glance, there were dozens of campfires chasing the darkness of the night.

Each campfire had a 4 to 5 man party sitting around it, which meant that there were a significant number of users at the edge of Lightless Forest that had stopped hunting.

‘Hmm, they are party type monsters too.’

The spiders and bats were working together.

Still, although he said that it would be comparatively easy, it appears that Goople does not tolerate a straightforward hunting method.

Especially at night, the spiders were very active, so when long-ranged dealers tried to shoot their bows or throw their daggers, they get disrupted by the webs.

The closer they get, the greater the risk.

However, if they try to cast magic, the vampire bats would not stand still.

The hunting method that was widely recommended in the community was for long-ranged dealers to deal with the vampire bats while mages burn the spiders with magic.

‘However, it’s a bit difficult at night, isn’t it? Even bats are more aggressive at night.’

Leeha understood the reason why everyone was waiting until morning.

“Are you going to hunt?”

“What? Yes.”

One user caught Leeha going into the forest. He was from one of the groups sitting around the camp. The mage who was grumbling before.

“Alone?”

“Yes. Why?”

“Amazing. What level are you?”

“25.”

“25? You still won’t be able to solo though. It’s dangerous at night. Your weapon… is a gun? Will you be able to manage?”

“Ah, yes. I’m a little busy. Well then.”

Leeha lightly bowed and went past the user.

“Hey, hey! Party with us and wait until morning!”

Leeha heard the mage’s cry from behind, but he did not stop.

He couldn’t afford to be in a party.

In a situation where he had to return by the time the sun rises, waiting until morning was out of the question.

“You can’t go solo in Lightless Forest in the middle of the night…”

The mage sat quietly and said.

“Leave him be. If he dies , it’s his problem.”

“Kek, true that. It’s getting boring, shall we make a bet on when he will come out? 1 silver, call?”

“Great. I bet he’ll come out in two hours.”

“1 hour for me. 1 silver.”

“Then I’ll bet on one hour and a half.”

“O-kay. Let’s start the time.”

Leeha heard them talking. Was it because he was level 25? They are betting on his life?

‘Phew- People are so… mean.’

Leeha shook his head and walked into the forest.

The trees suddenly grew thick.

The already dim moonlight could not pass through the thick cobwebs on the trees, and the forest was like a closed room with lights out.

‘It’s dark. Even if I adapted to the darkness, it will still be difficult to see. I’ll need to light a torch… before proceeding. Reload, counting start.’

Leeha opened his bag in the dark.

The gunpowder could only be taken using his sense of touch.

5, 6… He didn’t know about the other items unless he looked for them but, he could take out the gunpowder and iron beads at any time.

‘I have to practice reloading in case it suddenly becomes dark. So that the same thing doesn’t happen twice.’

Ever since his battle with Agonia Oso, Leeha had been practicing reloading with his eyes closed. It was dark enough when he closed his eyes in the forest right now, so it was perfect for practicing like in real life.

‘After carefully biting the gunpowder bag, open the plate.’

18, 19, 20…

Although his eyes were closed, he could pick up the musket and inspect it with his sense of touch. Moreover, the sensation was better now that the assimilation rate had been raised to 50%.

‘I just have to do it like I practiced.’

29, 30, 31…

Sara-rak,- The amount was measured through the sound of pouring and the weight of the gunpowder bag. Stop. Leeha quickly held the gun.

‘All the gunpowder left will be poured into the muzzle. Pour it carefully so that it will not get jammed.’

40, 41…

He completed pouring all the gunpowder to the gunpowder plate and muzzle. He quickly opened his bag again and took out the iron beads.

52, 53…

As soon as he felt the cold barrel, his hand went up.

‘It’s like I’m possessed.’

The iron bead went straight into the muzzle.

Then, the musket’s butt was hit hard on the floor to complete the reload.

‘63! Damn, if only I could just shorten it by three seconds then it would be one minute!’

Leeha was regretful but he had no time to regret.

Because he just reloaded with his eyes closed. In the dark, he reloaded without looking and he finished within 63 seconds.

What if there was light?

‘I could shorten it to at least 50 seconds.’

It was great that he was able to reduce the reloading steps from 6 to 7 to only 5. But as he got more proficient in the 5 step reload, his reload time got shorter.

There might be a reduction in reload time due to his mastery, but Leeha felt a different sensation. His body moved quickly on its own.

It was another increase in speed, which was different from the clear sensation he felt when his assimilation rate was increased.

‘It’s faster. The movement itself is definitely faster… Is it the effect of agility?’

Leeha opened his character window.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 25 (11%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 14

HP： 1630 / MP： 345 Stats: Strength: 40(+25)

Agility: 215 (+115)

Intelligence: 46(+31)

Constitution: 74(+26)

Mind: 27(+17)

Remaining stat points: 27

The sum of his agility already exceeded 200. In simpler terms, it was at a number that can only appear when you add all your stat points to Agility until level 41.

If you consider distributing to agility, constitution, strength, intelligence, etc. by normal ranged dealers, they would need to be well over level 50 to achieve 200 agility.

In other words, the reason that some changes were felt in Leeha’s body was because he had already achieved the stats beyond certain levels.

‘It is probably because of stats that the sensation is different when users reach level 50 and level 100. Leeha carried the loaded musket on his shoulder and lit a torch.

Whaaak-!

A yellow light began to spread in the forest that seemed to cause claustrophobia.

“Umm…”

Did I go too deep? I should have lit a torch.”

Leeha smiled bitterly.

Spiders came down from above. Two at the same time.

Kiii—-!

(To be continued…)
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Chapter 53

The legs of the spiders that fell down when their webs were removed shrank. Because of the fire that suddenly bloomed in the Lightless Forest, they would not be able to see for a while.

“Uh… I can’t say it’s pretty.”

They were about 3m above Leeha’s head. Their bodies were about the size of a basketball.

Their basketball-sized bodies had eight legs attached to them. They looked terrible, however, Leeha stayed calm.

To be more accurate, Leeha’s fingers were calm.

Taaang—!

It was almost impossible to miss even if he closed his eyes. Even though he was looking upwards, Leeha’s posture which firmly supported his musket did not waver.

Chwaah, the body exploded with the mucus pouring on Leeha.

“Uh… Raising the assimilation rate is not good.”

It was juicy and viscous like gravy, and the basketball-sized body was a spider!

After putting up with nausea he felt, Leeha pulled out a bag of gunpowder. What was the condition of the other one?

‘It shouldn’t have recovered its vision yet’

eight ping-pong balls in front of a basketball.

‘Are those eyeballs?’ Seeing it rub its big, dirty eyes with its legs, it won’t make it easy for him to recover its vision.

‘Reload!’

Even if the torch was thrown to the floor, it was still burning. He took out another gunpowder bag and started reloading while counting at the same time.

1, 3, 8, 11, 25… Tab!

“52 seconds!”

He raised his musket with a cry. It took less than 0.1 second to pull the trigger at the ghastly monster dangling in the air.


Taaang—!

The spider’s body exploded again, terrifyingly, with sparks on the gunpowder plate.

One shot, one kill.

“Huu…”

‘Let alone level 50, there aren’t many people under level 100 that can compare to my one-shot damage.’

It would have been weirder if he couldn’t one-shot the spider.

It was the first time since starting Middle Earth that Leeha was truly comfortable in a hunting ground.

“Alright.”

The body exploded and two balls fell on the floor. Leeha approached and tried to pick up the loot but to no avail.

First of all, the drop rate of the quest item was less than 50%.

‘What? Is it stuck here? I still have 10 hours 30 minutes remaining.’

Even considering the time left to return, there was still plenty of time left. Leeha took out another bag of gunpowder.

“Now, let’s have a little fun.”

Of course, if he could afford to hunt, he should also pay attention to skill level-up. From bayonet charge to the calm mind.

Leeha’s musket started to run wild.

“Kek, guys. Shall we go check if that person is dead or not? It’s been about two hours now.”

The Elementalist Oriental Bird suggested.

“It’s been that long already? Ah, I lost 1 silver.”

“No, not yet! Let’s take a look. He might have died and become a corpse, that might be the reason he did not come out.”

“Ah, right, right. Why don’t we go and see?”


“Let’s go then!”

Oriental Bird got up, but the other members seemed unwilling.

The 1 silver bet was fun and all, but going into the forest and checking it?

“What about when the spiders and bats appear?”

“We’re not going to hunt, we’re just going to check and see. We’ll be fine as long as we light up a torch and carry it.”

“Hmm…”

“If we can find the body, we can get more than 1 silver! Hehe, isn’t that right?”

“Still… We only have archers with one longbow and one composite bow.

‘

They were a party of three, with two archers and one mage. It was certainly dangerous to wander around the forest at night, but Oriental Bird was greedy.

The bet of 1 silver was only an excuse to check the body. The reason why Oriental Bird wanted to check was that he remembered the clothes Leeha wore.

‘That guy from before, did he pay for it? Even if he was level 25, he would not be able to solo the Lightless Forest at night. Because if he was dead, his items might have dropped. I liked the coat the most, but the cap and boots looked good too.’

The color of the leather was not normal.

He did not know what it was, but it was clear that it was a very good item to wear around level 20.

‘If I have these idiots with me, I’ll need to share the items. Once I find the body, I will quickly pick the items for myself.’

He was certain that Leeha was dead, but it was also dangerous, so he was not able to go there without hesitating.

“Let’s go quickly. We don’t know if there’s a body or not. If there’s a body, we can determine the time of death using that, so we have to go quickly.”

In fact, it was hard to determine the exact time he died or who won the bet just by looking at the body. There might be a fight over when he died.

But what if that happens?

Oriental Bird could have let them win any time. It was only if he could take all the items for himself.


‘The items might cost as much as 2 to 3 silver.’

If the color was that much, its value might even exceed that. He’ll even 2 or 3 silver as much as they want. If only I could get the items.

“Hmm… Then shall we go? How about you?”

“Call. If that person is still alive, will you give us one silver each? Has it been 2 hours? Kek.”

Everyone had their own plans, and Oriental Bird and his party members headed to the Lightless Forest.

“I’m still afraid to go in.”

“First of all, let’s check the surroundings.”

Oriental Bird cast magic towards the air. One of the Elementalist’s basic attack magic, “Fire arrow!”

The fire arrow bloomed in the air toward the forest.

Fire arrows flew to their limits to illuminate all directions.

They secured their vision. It’s best to be careful, even if it consumed a little bit of mana.

“Fortunately, there are no spiders.”

“But watch out for the bats. They may have felt the fire arrow.”

Oriental Bird began to regret it a little.

When he came here, he felt like he did something wrong. There was no way the mana vampire bats could not have felt the sudden surge of mana…

At level 18, he had 18 points in constitution.

Because he invested most of his stat points on intelligence and mind, he had a low constitution. His mana points are 430. Although the attack power of the bats is low, if three bats attack at the same time, he would die instantly.

‘Ah, did I do something wrong? No, I can earn 1 more magic skill if I had just 1 gold. For money…!’

The two archers slowly notched their arrows to their bows.

“I can’t hear the bats. Let’s take it slow.”

They also made a small torch.

With that level of light, even the spiders would not notice. They would also be able to deal with one or two.

10, 20 minutes passed but they hadn’t fired a single arrow yet…

Because it was night, they walked carefully and it took 20 minutes to get inside.

But what happened? There was no reaction in the forest.

“Didn’t you say they are more active at night? I heard that spiders and bats are more frantic…?”

“…That’s right. I can’t hear the bats. Shall we raise our torch slightly?”

They were worried about spiders…

Again, 10 more minutes passed.

They were walking into the forest for 30 minutes, and they haven’t heard a single bat, let alone a spider. Was that even possible?

The group felt the tension slowly dissipating.

There was obviously something odd. On the other hand, there was a growing concern.

This is because there were cases where monsters do not appear, but 10 of them spawned at the same time.

‘Ah, this is crazy. Where did that bastard from before go? Where should I look for the item? Damn it, if you die, you have to die nearby.’

The item would have been easy to find even if it was destroyed. Because there would be light shining softly on the floor.

“Guys… this is amazing.”

“What?”

Anxiety arose from Oriental Bird when one of the archers in front of him stopped walking. Why? Did a spider appear?

“That…”

They followed where his fingers pointed. At the end of it, there was a swamp on the forest floor.

“Umm, what is that?”

“I-I don’t know. What is… that?”

They could not see it properly. Oriental Bird and his party members walked forward nervously.

“Uh, isn’t it sticky?”

One of the archers raised his foot.

Slime dripped from the sole of his foot.

“Swamp? This isn’t a jungle… I never heard that there was a swamp in the Lightless Forest.”

“No, it’s not a swamp. This… this!”

They brought the torch closer.

The three of them may never forget the scene that unfolded before their eyes.

“Those are corpses!”

“Keu, heub.”

Oriental Bird barely held back his nausea and averted his eyes. Countless corpses of spiders and bats scattered on the floor.

The corpses of the monsters had turned grey but did not disappear yet because they had not been dead for a long time.

However, the situation was the same wherever they turned their heads. Although it was small, the area that the torch lit up was quite large…

The ground reached by the light was littered with the fluids from bats and spiders. In order to reach this kind of result, hundreds of monsters would be required.

“Baaarf, baaaarf-arf-arf-!”

In the end, oriental Bird was not able to hold it in and started vomiting. Did the devil go here? What happened?

Paduk, Paduduk-!

They suddenly heard the sound of bat wings.

One, two, three… the sound of flapping grew louder and louder, and it began to reverberate throughout the forest like a storm.

“Oh? Ohh? What’s this?”

And they soon realized… This forest was where a huge amount of bats resided. But they never saw them when they came in. And the countless corpses on the ground, what if these corpses died at the same time?

“What? Are you crazy? What the-! Why are there so many?!”

“Ah, f-fuck. Oriental Bird! Oriental Bird-nim! Cast your magic, quick!”

It was natural for the monsters to respawn at the same time. There were a lot of monsters.

“Spiders! Spiders are also coming down! Three above!”

The two archers shot their arrows in retaliation. But they were flustered because it didn’t even go near the monsters.

“Oriental Bird-nim!”

“Baaaarf.”

Oriental Bird was vomiting nonstop and couldn’t cast.

“Kuaak, spiders, spiders!”

“I couldn’t even hit the bats, so why are there spiders?!”

West of Aelstock, the Lightless Forest.

Three strangers, relying on a small torch, entered the depths and were swept by a huge number of bats and spiders respawning at the same time.

Hey, fucking Bird!!! Use your magic!!!!

Pop, only an angry scream remained in place.

(To be continued…)
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Chapter 54 Browless was preparing early in the morning. He didn’t really oversleep, but today he woke up especially early.

Was it because he expected the rookie to return, after forcibly giving him a quest just the night before?

‘There’s no way I feel that way.’

The operation of the academy had already been neglected. The people who thought they were the next generation of the “Three Musketeers” left and never came back.

Moreover, what happened to his co-founders who founded the academy together with him?

‘If only I could check if they are alive or dead… no, do I still have this kind of regret?’

After the two co-founders disappeared, he was left all alone, and although the operation of the academy had been neglected, he could not get rid of it.

Even if he was the last musketeer, he wanted to protect this place that contained the dreams of the three of them.

The reason he treated uninvited guests harshly was that he did not want to tell anyone about his situation.

“Hmm?”

Browless, who was carefully brewing coffee and moving to the director’s office, caught the silhouette of a person.

‘Who? Is he the one from last night?’

He couldn’t have known that he was taking a board and lodging inside the academy. If someone had come in, wouldn’t he have felt their presence in an instant?

‘It seems they have sent someone with a bit of skill this time.’

Are the threats to relocate the academy not over yet? Even if they suffer?

‘Right, another guy’s head will just have to explode.’

Browless took his musket. He was able to load in an instant.

It was dark, but the silhouette of the enemy gradually became clearer.

Browless took two more steps and then, click! He lifted his musket and aimed it straight.

And he couldn’t hide his embarrassment.


The person he saw was Koma he sent out last night.

“Oh? Should I show you the letter of introduction again?”

Leeha raised his arm while holding a musket in his hand.

Browless couldn’t even think of a retort to Leeha’s question. The spider legs and bat teeth spread and almost filled the floor of the Headmaster’s office. With just a glance, it should be around 200 each.

“It should probably be enough.”

Leeha looked at Browless and smiled.

Browless looked at his watch.

“It is commendable that you are not late.”

I’m not late? Is that all? Leeha was disappointed at Browless’s reaction.

No, would he be satisfied with just slightly enlarged eyes for a moment? He thought that there was going to be an uproar about how he did it and what tricks he used.

“Cough, hmm… hmm… Would you like a cup of coffee?”

“Thank you.”

Browless’s face contorted after getting out of the director’s office.

‘How did he get so many?’

Those sundries are not tradeable.

He only gave Leeha 200 sets of gunpowder.

Even if he used it all up and killed all the targets in one shot, there should be only about 200 monsters.

Besides, there wouldn’t be that many spider legs or bat teeth. He would need to kill at least 80 spiders or bats to get 30…

‘How many did he catch? Even if he hunted all night, he shouldn’t have picked up that many… The timing is not right.’

With the number of sundries available, he should have hunted and caught more than 500.


At Leeha’s reload speed, he could only shoot once per minute.

To catch 500, it would take 500 minutes. That would be 8 hours.

With the 12 hours time limit, he must have spent at least 4 hours just for the round trip. That is exactly 12 hours! That would be right, but… When he thought about it, it didn’t make any sense.

It took more than a minute to hunt because aside from the one minute reload time, it also took time to find monsters.

‘Did he really end up shooting more than 500 rounds?? That little kid?’

Even after preparing a cup of coffee, Browless’s question was not answered.

Browless walked with a stiff face and managed his expression again in front of the Headmaster’s room.

“Here.”

“Thank you.”

Leeha took the cup of coffee and smiled. There was no praise. There wasn’t even a fuss. But at least the way Browless treated him had improved. Him offering Leeha a coffee was enough to make Leeha understand how surprised Browless was.

“Hmm… cough. It must have been hard.”

“It was not easy.”

『Completed Lightless Forest.』

『Intimacy with Brown Bess Musket Academy’s Director, Browless, increased by 30%..』

『Intimacy increased by an additional 5% by exceeding the quest condition.』

『Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution increased by 30.』

『National Contribution increased by 5 for exceeding the quest conditions.』

‘Oh?’

Leeha was surprised when he saw the notification window. Exceeding requirements? There’s something like this?

‘Why didn’t I see it in the community?’


It might be because hunting quests are usually difficult. Is that the reason I didn’t see exceeding requirements? Or was it not just by exceeding the requirements by one or two times, but by exceeding it by a crazy amount?

“Hehe, that’s not everything yet, director-nim.”

“I don’t know how many shots you fired, but if you hunted all night then you should have already mastered Precise Hand Movement.”

“Yes?”

Browless tossed 1 silver coin to Leeha. A silver coin illuminated in the air of the dark chamber.

Tak-!

Leeha lightly caught it. He heard a notification sound.

Babam-!

『1 Silver acquired.』

『Skill: Precise Hand Movement acquired.』

“If you get used to reloading in the dark, you will become faster when there is light. Congratulations. That is the basis of Precise Hand Movement.”

“Ah…”

Leeha understood Browless’s words. It was definitely faster than with just Musket Mastery. By the way, what about Browless? So what kind of skill is this?

‘Skill window.’

『Beginner’s Precise Hand Movement』 (Lv.l)』

Description: A skilled musketeer can always put the right amount of gunpowder. Always keeps his hands precise.

Effect: Fixed reload time of 30 seconds for 5 minutes.

Mana: 100

Cooldown: 6 hours

‘Oh! 30 seconds reload time? Additionally, the duration is 5 minutes!’

Although Leeha’s reload time is currently at 50 seconds, 30 second reload time can make the difference. In addition, the duration of 5 minutes is huge.

Assuming that all shots within that 5 minutes hit, it was almost double his current damage.

‘6 hours… The cooldown is a bit long but… I guess I need to be careful about when I use it.

“What should I do next?”

“Ahem, t-that.”

“Yes!”

Leeha answered immediately.

Browless made eye contact with Leeha, looked at the wall once and then slowly turned his head. He glanced once at the teacup. He hesitated.

“That… How did you do it?”

“What?”

“It’s impossible to bring that much with your current skill. Did you buy it?”

Browless knew better than anyone that it cannot be purchased. However, he asked because he did not want to appear curious.

‘Ah, that.”

Leeha sipped his coffee and continued.

“I used the combination of my skills.”

“A combination of skills?”

“Hehe..”

Leeha laughed. He was reminded of the incident in the forest a few hours ago.

“It’s inefficient… The good thing is that the torch didn’t go out, not even once, even when he threw it on the ground. It was good that he could one-shot the monsters. However, it was also true that he felt like losing money by hunting monsters that did not even give that much experience.

‘How can I effectively hunt?’

Leeha did not have a lot of skills. Additionally, bargaining is not for hunting. So, in the end, there are three.

Calm Mind increased accuracy for 3 seconds.

Bayonet Charge increased melee attack power for 15 seconds.

And the passive skill, musket Mastery.

“Hmm… Bayonet Charge has a 5-minute cooldown and Calm Mind has a 30-minute cooldown.”

Considering the duration, is it at the level to add an additional 1 or 2 shots? Efficiency can’t be measured that way.

In the beginning, it was explained that Bayonet Charge is an emergency and last resort skill, while Calm Mind enhances the accuracy of one shot.

‘It’s a pity that I couldn’t do a wide-ranged attack.’

This was the most common concern of ranged dealers.

As seen in the community, archers, have the arrow shower skill that uses multiple arrows to shoot multiple shots or summon mana arrows in the air, but it was not easy to learn.

‘It was said that it could be learned at level 90, right?’

Even if he knew that they have a skill like that, where could it be found? Just thinking about being able to learn it one day was enough to make one happy.

Because musketeers did not even have any information about it.

Leeha was not able to find it on the Korean site, so he was on the verge of finding it on overseas sites. Even though he was able to find some information with difficulty, not one was related to wide-range skills.

‘I have no skills, it would be really useful if there was an area of effect skill as strong as my attack power… Leeha was somewhat disappointed.

“I’ll hunt first.”

Leeha used his torch to lure the spiders. Slowly, three spiders came down.

He currently had one shot loaded.

However, Leeha did not aim at the spider. He just quietly sat and continued to light the torch.

The spiders slowly began to descend. The moment when its position reached Leeha sight.

Taang—!

Two destructive sounds were heard along with an explosion.

Two of them died instantly at once. The last one looked at Leeha as if surprised.

“A spider pretending to have its pupils dilate! You have six eyes!”

Leeha immediately reloaded. It took the spider 50 seconds to withdraw from the light while threatening Leeha, which was enough time for someone like him who already mastered reloading to reload.

As soon as Leeha hit the musket’s butt on the floor, he grabbed the musket.

Kiii–!

The spider descended fiercely from the tree!

“Bye-bye.”

Leeha pointed his gun at the ball-sized spider. With just one pull of his index finger, the iron bullet penetrated the spider’s body.

Kiiik-!

The spider fell to the ground, with sticky juice pouring out of its body.

(To be continued…)
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“I caught three but only got 1 quest item… In other words, the quest will be over once he caught at least 100 each. Leeha made a plan based on the hunting data from the previous day.

“I thought the crossbow pierced two bats… My musket is also able to pierce. It can even pierce the skin of a spider.”

He killed two spiders in one shot. It was a very thin area, and it meant that it would get pierced anyway.

“And this…”

Leeha looked around while holding his torch.

The forest had grown a little white. There were not enough passages and the passage for humans and spiders overlapped.

‘If there was a narrow path for monsters, how great would it be to gather them in one place and use an area of effect skill?’

It would be the best hunting ground.

‘I don’t have that kind of skill though… Wait a minute. Skill… Skill and what.’

Does a skill have to consume mana? Was it necessary to have a cool name for a skill? Leeha used a ‘skill’ to drive out the wolves at Candle Mountain.

‘Chasing them away with the smell of gunpowder.’

The same went for Biyemi. He used the hidden trait of his race and managed to overcome the obstacles brilliantly.

‘Right. It doesn’t need to be a learned skill. I can use the resources I have and the structure of this forest…!’

The corner of Leeha’s lips rose at the idea that suddenly crossed his mind.

He didn’t know when the monsters would respawn. Besides, it was his first time preparing for a real battle, so the risk was high.

‘But I can try, can’t I?’

He had to finish it quickly while no one was around. Leeha hastily moved.

“Okay. That’s it…”

He snuck behind the wooden post. It was pretty funny when he moved into a prone position as if he was stuck to the floor.


“Cough, cough. Is there anyone around! Are there any users nearby〜?”

Leeha raised his voice. It should be audible up to 50m away.

“If there are, answer me! Are there any users nearby?”

However, no one answered. Okay. There were a lot of campfires spread at the entrance of the forest. No madman entered the forest at night.

‘Still, I should be careful.’

He got up from his seat and looked around. He was proud of finishing his preparation without doing any testing, but he doubted whether it would work practically.

‘It’s theoretically perfect. It should be okay.’

Leeha walked forward and held up his torch.

Kii—!

“Yes, yes. Why don’t you come here? You must have heard me too.”

Two spiders descended in response to Leeha’s torch. Leeha glanced back and quickly pulled the trigger.

Kiiiieek!

As one spider collapsed to the floor with its crushed body, Leeha approached the remaining one.

Kii–! Kii–!

“Now, I didn’t do that for nothing! Bayonet charge!”

The descending spider’s front leg brushed past Leeha’s cheek. At the same time as Leeha shouted his skill.

Leeha pointed his gun at the spider with a basketball-sized body.

Kiiiieek!!

He stabbed the spider’s stomach, but it didn’t die in a single blow. Although its blood spurted out, the spider still tried to bite Leeha.

The densely packed teeth aimed at the back of Leeha’s neck, but he also expected an attack from its front legs! Leeha’s mana bayonet caught its movement.


“I did not…”

“Learn…”

“Bayonet Charge-”.

“For nothing!” 때린다.

Leeha flipped the spider by hitting it with the musket’s butt and pinned it using the mana bayonet.

“Huuu. It would be good if I caught both of them instead of only one.”

Leeha finished pinning the spider down. The ‘real’ hunt begins now.

-Duduk, pududuk, pududuk.

The sound of flapping wings could be heard from a distance.

‘More spiders!’

Leeha raised the torch to where the sound came from. The monsters found in the spider web above the tree started descending into the light.

‘So far, everything is going according to plan!’

He just needed to lead the spiders and bats in one direction! Leeha started running away quickly. No, he was going the other way.

Pududuk, pududuk.

‘Oh…? What’s this? In addition to my 12 o’clock position… there’s also from 3 no, 4 o’clock? No, 9 o’clock?’

The sound of flapping wings could be heard. Leeha tried to figure out where the sound was coming from but he couldn’t figure it out.

It was unavoidable.

‘No! It’s coming from three directions!’

I thought it would have been nice for a lot to come, but isn’t it too much? No, more importantly, it’s not just one direction.

‘Damn it!’


The mana vampire bats arrived in response to the mana bayonet! He expected it.

But he had no idea that they would come from all directions. If they did not come from the right direction, his plan might fail.

‘It’s not that bad.’

Leeha moved first.

And the spiders and bats started chasing Leeha.

“Haa, haa.”

Spider webs from trees stuck to Leeha’s face.

He continued to run, barely avoiding the monsters’ attacks.

‘I can’t stop.’

The rustling behind Leeha was almost like a storm. He had no way of knowing how many there were.

Leeha led the group of monsters and continued running.

“Ahhh!!!”

Kiii—Kiiii!

He could feel some of the spider’s legs scratching his back.

If he didn’t have the Runner’s High, he would have been caught and killed sooner. The tree marked by Leeha came into view.

Two trees with large X marks on their bark. But the monsters were too close. More, more distance. He needed to widen their distance.

“Heup!”

Leeha clenched his teeth and put strength into his thighs.

Pak, pak, he navigated through the dark forest without hesitation in order to widen the distance between him and the monsters.

Leeha leaped forward and turned around.

What caught his eyes was a swarm of nearly hundreds of bats and spiders.

But he had no time to be surprised. No time to be in awe.

‘I only have one chance, with the Flint tied around the tree.’

A very small stone appeared for a moment and disappeared again.

His body fell from mid-air. and the torch had also fallen to the ground, so it was natural that he could not see his target properly.

‘Calm Mind.’

But it did not bother Leeha. Once he saw his target, he never lost it.

Click, Leeha pulled the trigger. The musket’s sound was not very loud.

A small spark ignited when the iron bullet collided with the Flint.

Piiit-.

The sound made by the spark was loud enough to cover the musket’s sound, and made the whole ‘Lightless Forest’ tremble.

Of course, it was only natural that the hundreds of iron beads poured out along with the explosion ripped the monsters to pieces.

“Explo…sive?”

“Yes. To be exact, it was a ‘Claymore’ but…”

“Huu.”

“The fragments attached to the explosive can be projected in a specific direction. It was made on the spot and it was crude, but… It was enough to project hundreds of Iron beads in one direction.’

In response to Leeha’s words, Browless nodded.

‘Even so, it was exhausting. I set it so that it would explode in one direction, but the wind came from all directions…’

Leeha remembered what happened and swallowed dry saliva.

Creating a weapon of mass destruction by appropriately utilizing the geographical features, gunpowder and ammunition was satisfactory but dangerous at the same time.

‘Actually, the result was too effective. Since it was weaker than a normal claymore, I thought 4 meters would have been enough.’

However, the resulting explosion reached 8 to 9 meters from where his position is, which was almost as strong as a real claymore. If he jumped a little late, then his body would have been torn.

“Clay… more…”

Browless mouth was covered by a cup of coffee. It was because he did not want to show the corners of his lips that were constantly trying to rise.

“That’s interesting.”

“Thank you.”

“However, if that is true, then it would be close to a foul… I gave you that task in order for you to improve your musket skills. Because I gave you that task as the Headmaster of the Musket Academy.”

“If that is the case, then it should be fine, I was still able to practice quite a bit.”

Leeha smiled and said.

Although Browless still had his expressionless facade, Leeha could sense the kindness hidden behind it

It was clear that his words carried a hint of compliment.

“Don’t get too cocky.”

“Yes! Of course.”

Leeha stood at attention. With a smile on his face, Browless spoke again.

“Do you know what a musketeer does?”

“If it’s a role… What situation are you talking about?”

“Hmm… Right, let’s assume that it was a large-scale monster invasion 20 years ago.”

Browless stood up. He approached the window with the blinds lowered and opened it to let the light in. And looked outside.

In the meantime, Leeha recalled what Browless said.

The world of Middle Earth was constantly changing.

Regardless of the influence, the users have on the world or the flow of the world itself without taking the users into consideration.

However, if it was an event that happened 20 years ago, it meant that it was already fixed.

According to the Chinese official website, it was revealed that the biggest incident recorded in the history of Middle Earth was the monster invasion.

‘A war big enough to be called the 2nd Great Human-Demon War… It was said that the reason why the Fibiel Kingdom, which was a small country before that, became the strongest in the continent, was because of its activities in the Human-Demon War. The things that a musketeer can do in a large-scale war between monsters and humans.’

Every word Browless spoke was both a teaching and a test.

He thought that there must be an answer to that question, and there was one easy answer that came to Leeha’s mind.

An answer that musketeers who didn’t turn on the Combat Assistance System could never think of.

“I heard that the monsters also had commanders in the 1st and 2nd Human-Demon War. Aside from being called Demon King, there were also those that commanded and managed large, medium, and small monsters even in small-scale battles.”

“So?”

Browless dimmed down the room by lowering the blinds and looked at Leeha. Even in the darkness, the Headmaster’s eyes were bright.

“Then there’s only one thing a musketeer can do.”

“And that is?”

“Snipe.”

“Snipe?”

The area where Browless’s brows should have been, furrowed. Sniping.

It was absolutely impossible with a musket. Sniping with a gun that had 40m range? It would be better to use a longbow that has a 65m range.

But Leeha was certain.

It was partially because Leeha was able to hit a target 100m away, and it meant that it was possible for a musket.

“In the army(軍), even if the commander is lost, there is a command system in place where the deputy can take over to continue the battle, however, monsters did not have that kind of knowledge and preparedness. In that case, it is judged that it is the most effective tactic to kill the commander and conduct a large-scale airstrike when the situation is chaotic.”

At least at this moment, the answer didn’t come from the stranger Ha Leeha. It was the Basic Doctrine of a Sniper.

It was the logical answer from the point of view of the Army Sniper, sgt. Ha Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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Browless raised his cup of coffee again. Gulp, Leeha didn’t see him licking his lips.

“Thanks to you, I was able to establish the academy.”

“Yes? What…?”

“Nothing, it’s already done. Right. If you already know, there’s nothing to explain anymore.”

Browless put down his mug.

A notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『A promising seedling-1』

Description: During the Human-Demon War, the deputy commanders for minor battles were young Kobolds. Thanks to their contribution at that time they became Kobold Chieftains. If a 3rd Human-Demon War erupted, they would return to the battlefield and lead the monsters. Eliminate the Kobold Chieftain of the Hizut tribe near the capital, aelstock! There are a lot of Kobolds and they are densely packed, be careful.

Content: Eliminate the Kobold Chieftain Hizut-Ka (0/1)

Reward: •Increased intimacy with Browless by 10%, •Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution +10,

•30 Copper

『Quest description has been changed.』

『Quest condition has been changed.』

『A promising seedling-1』

Description: ‘It’s too early for Koma, but I should give him a chance… If he’s the real deal, he won’t lose his life with this.’

Content: Eliminate Kobold Chieftain Hizut-Ka (0 / 1)

Reward: •Increase intimacy with Browless by 30%,

•Increase intimacy with Sacred Knights by 10%,


•Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution +20

Fail Condition: Death,

Reaching level 30,

Completing the quest in a party. Penalty for failure: 『Browless’s Expectations』 will be deleted, the quest will return to its original condition.

– Would you like to accept?

‘Hmm? Huh?’

What’s this? Leeha could not help but panic while reading the quest description.

‘I did not even use the bargaining skill, so why did it change? Besides, hunting Kobolds?’

He knew about Kobolds.

They are usually hunted around level 30. They were a group of monsters living near the mining area, in the western part of the capital, aelstock.

And he wanted a level 26 user to go there?

There was no way that NPCs could not see a user’s level. Nor would it be impossible to gauge the level of monsters.

Sending a level 26 musketeer to a level 30 hunting ground, and preventing party play and death.

And to top it all, he would also fail the quest when he reached level 30, which was the original hunting level?

This meant he had to catch it before level 29… In other words, he needed to complete the quest early.

‘This? What is 『Browless’s Expectation』?’

It was obviously a different quest. At a glance, Leeha could feel that Browless had started to believe in him.

‘Besides, there are signs that this would be something big…’

Browless looked at the smilingLeeha.

“I don’t think that it is difficult. It’s exactly as you said kid, you need to snipe. You only need to blow the chieftain’s head. You don’t even need to bring any evidence. When the chieftain dies, the Sacred Knights will know right away.”


“How will the Sacred Knights know when the chieftain is dead?”

“It’s because I’m watching.”

“Ah, yes. You’re watching. That’s really helpful.”

‘It should be finished once I blow the chief’s head off…

It’s an odd quest, to say the least.

Should I accept it?’

It was not an easy quest. It was definitely dangerous. Quite dangerous at that.

Musketeers do not have an easy time hunting alone. It was a quest that required hunting a higher-level monster. But he was greedy.

『Browless’s expectations』? Even though he didn’t know what it was, he felt that “something” resonated in his mind.

There were only a few musketeers.

And among them, only three people were able to hit a target 100m away. This is a difficult quest.

It was a quest that screamed suspicious and enticing at the same time.

‘Is it the next generation of Three Musketeers? I have never heard of such a story. Something great might come out. If so… It would be worth it, right?’

‘Activate Bargaining skill.’

『Bargaining skill activated.』

『The chance of persuading the target is increased by 23%.』

“I know that the Kobolds are not something that I can handle right now.”

“Right.”

“Then, why did you give me that task?”

Leeha cleverly led the conversation.


The things he learned in the military began to shine here, and he used it to understand the mission better.

How much would the reward be? Will the intimacy increase even more?

These questions were of no help.

Knowing the reason why the quest was given. In order to understand the nature of the quest.

“Isn’t it interesting?”

Browless gave a simple.

“Yes? Interesting?”

“You just have to decide whether to accept it or not.”

『Failed to persuade the target.』

“Ah…”

I couldn’t even check that much? He’d rather ask for money!

‘Activate Bargaining skill.’

『You can’t retry to bargain on a failed target.』

‘Damn it!’

He was not able to trigger it again. However, he did not worry about it too much.

It was something he had to do anyway. And he had the destructive power of one shot.

‘As long as I can secure the distance, and have a good vantage point on the chieftain, I could do it in one try.’

Snipers needed to identify the terrain and secure an escape route.

He did not have any experience in real life, but he had been training at it incessantly. Wasn’t it just a boring repetition?

“I will do it .”

“Good, now go.”

“Yes.”

Leeha grabbed his musket and headed out.

“Don’t expect too much.”

However, Leeha did not hear Browless’s words.

“Well… Let’s do it.”

Once Leeha accepted the quest, he left.

‘Should I go straight to the Kobold dungeon?’

Leeha shook his head. Fortunately or unfortunately, the conditions of the quest were simple.

As long as he did not get to level 30, the quest would not fail.

‘It means I can get to level 29 with my experience almost full and catch it. I don’t need to rush.’

He did not need to rush now.

Most of all, he was extremely curious about Browless, that he could not stand it.

‘I understand that he is the director of the Academy, but what does he do?’ He heard from Candle Castle’s Guard Captain Jiat. It was the best musketeer academy on the continent, where the strongest people resided.

Of course, since they are from the same kingdom, it did not have that much credibility, but in any case, the head of each academy should have been recognized as a talented person who had spread their name in each country. Leeha knew a faster way than searching.

– Kijung-ah.

His cousin, Kijung, a level 198 Templar. He should know his story more than anyone else.

-Kijung?

His whispers were being delivered, but he did not get any response. If he was logged out, the whisper wouldn’t go through at all. What was happening?

‘Is he hunting…?’

Leeha suddenly remembered his friend’s list. He would be able to check whether he was connected or not.

‘What? He is connected. Is he busy?’

Leeha confirmed Kijung’s connection status. Tiwi Canyon. There was also a person next to him.

Byulcho’s Guild Master, ‘Sage’ Hyein.

Kuroninja Sasuke wore black leather clothes. Tiwi Canyon.

The Highlander Tale, who was a 5th Dan Kumdo practitioner, was also there.

‘Byulcho guild members together, are they having a meeting? Kek. Or maybe they are party hunting.’

That was the joy of having a guild. They are having a meeting and they ignore the whispers.

Then, he suddenly stopped walking.

Leeha had added a total of 8 friends in total. Kijung and 3 from Byulcho Guild. Biyemi and Jin Gunggong, Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon.

They were also at Tiwi Canyon.

“We did it! The Ram sisters are on the run! They are entering Tiwi Canyon!”

“Encircle them! The Dragon Knights are coming soon! Sasuke! Send out forces to the escape route! Send five parties made of dealers!”

Hyein sent out orders as soon as he heard the report.

Okay. Shunpo!”

Kuroninja Sasuke disappeared in an instant.

A ninja’s skill that lets the user step on space rather than on the ground had been activated. Hyein did not stop giving orders even after Sasuke disappeared.

“Healers cast haste on the Tankers, tankers charge! Tale hyung, follow us as well!”

“Understood. Quick Charging.”

Power entered Tale’s hand which was holding a two-handed sword.

As soon as he activated his skill, highlander Tale began to move forward, he felt his body going ahead before he could even think of it.

“Haste!”

“Quicken!”

Haak-!

Green light appeared, and the heavily armored knights in front sped up their steps.

They wore armor, helmet, and even a shield that was heavy enough to dig into the soil with every step they took. However, their movements under the effect of movement increasing buffs were extremely light.

“They will not escape from Tiwi Canyon! If by any chance they do, Sasuke will stop them, so drive them into the corner! Kay! Lead the tankers!”

“Understood!”

Kijung responded to Hyein’s command. Templar Kijung led the tankers and the Byulcho guild members rushed out.

There were around thirty people.

‘This time…’

Everyone from Byulcho Guild at a certain level was called. Additionally, in a little while, the alliance will also send reinforcements.

‘There are forty of us, ten from Dragon Knights, and ten from Seomgwang. This should be enough. No matter how much they try, Ram Hwajung would not be able to escape through the siege of this many people!’

The most important thing was to guard against teleportation.

If they used a scroll or teleport to tear through space and run away, there was no way to follow them.

If they were a normal mage.

“I need two tankers to guard me!”

“Yes, shield Serving!”

“Protect!”

Two men quickly approached and surrounded Hyein. One cannot be too careful.

‘Although it’s only the Rambitches right now, I need to be vigilant.’

Two people, Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, who helped her level up, were driven into the corner.

However, they also led a guild. Maybe people from that guild are already coming.

‘I won’t have much time.’

Hyein knew the skills of their guild.

If three to four talented people came, there was a high chance that the opportunity that they had difficulty seizing would be wasted

Also, it was difficult to predict when they would arrive, so one should be prepared. There was a good chance of getting ambushed after casting magic clumsily.

(To be continued…)
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Rune Language(語) came out of Hyein’s mouth, as he continuously muttered chants.

On the ground in front of him, a light purple magic circle began to be drawn automatically.

Of course, the light that was gradually absorbed into Hyein’s body was also light purple.

Speaking of Sage, he was a mage who could manipulate space.

Magic spells such as Teleport, blink, Portal, Gate, and Warp were a breeze for Hyein. Of course, for Hyein, closing someone else’s space was as easy as opening his own.

However, even for Hyein, one of the best mages in Korea, Ram Hwajung, ranked 9th in the world, was a formidable opponent.

‘I won’t be able to use magic like this continuously, but it should be fine. It is now enough to cover a radius of about 500m. Other people would not even be able to come here through space travel. I will have to hurry…But as long as I am careful, I won’t get ambushed.’

The Alliance’s reinforcements were rushing in as well, but Hyein judged that they should be enough.

Because, if Ram Hwajung broke through the space blockade, they would be able to escape.

After a while, the magic spell was completed.

“Dimension Lock!”

Light purple light scattered all over Tiwi Canyon.

Even before Hyein’s magic was activated, there were no signs of teleportation. It meant that Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon could not escape.

‘Huu……. I got those twins.’

Hyein was not able to hold in his laughter. How long had it been? It was finally time to put an end to the humiliation of the Byulcho guild members being driven away by the Ram Sisters.

“Stop!!! Ice Blast incoming!”

Two tankers raised their shields. What came flying was a huge block of ice. Even with just a graze, it felt like their bones would shatter.

Booom-!


There wasn’t even a scream. Ram Hwajung’s Ice Blast exploded in the air and turned into ice shards, taking the lives of the two tankers.

A spear made of ice flew over the dazzling sight of ice cubes that reflected the sunlight.

“Ice Spear!! An Ice Spear is incoming!”

“I’ll take care of it.”

Its attack power was so great that even tankers lost their lives in one shot, but Tale stepped forward.

He outran the tankers with a light movement and ran towards the Ice Spear. Kijung was surprised and shouted.

“Hyung! Be careful!”

Tale nodded without answering. The Ice Spear, which flew at great speed, passed over Tale’s head.

“High Cut!”

Tale boldly cut the side of the Ice Spear.

Kwakwang!

The ice spear was cut into two pieces and exploded, scattering left and right.

No matter how solid an attack is, it was almost impossible to nullify a spell by cutting it!

“……I am an idiot for worrying about hyung-nim.”

“Thanks for your concern, Kay.”

Tale looked at him with a dignified manner.

“Hehe, everyone, follow me! I got you!”

Using a ferocious voice, Kijung sped up again. In front of him, he saw two women, the red-headed Hwayeon and the blue-haired Hwajung, running.

They were now less than 70 meters away.

And for a moment, they saw a light purple color above their head.


“Guild Master blocked teleport! The front is also blocked! We have got them now!”

Waaaaa-!!!

They had not memorized the terrain but they were familiar enough. The narrow canyon became narrower and narrower as they went deeper.

The walls were rougher and higher. The terrain was difficult to climb even for professional climbers.

Above all, was the height of the canyon.

It was impossible to climb, even when flight magic was used.

‘It’s Ram Hwajung. I heard that ever since she was young, Ram Hwayeon was a smart woman, but now she is running away to Tiwi Canyon.’

As expected, if people were in a panic, they would make wrong decisions. Kijung did not relax even for a moment. Thanks to that, he was able to quickly discover, that the ground in front of them was being frozen.

“Stop! It’s an Ice wall!”

Pachachacha-

As he saw the ground turning blue, a 12-meter ice wall instantly appeared.

“Shit, you want to struggle? Everyone get out of the way!”

Kijung stepped forward.

“Shield Charging!”

His distance to the ice wall was only 5 meters. It was a short distance with no room to run. However, with a shield in front of him, Kijung was shot like a bullet and flew into the ice wall.

Boom!

‘Again!’

Boom!

‘Again!’

It was a charge that could destroy any building, but the ice wall did not budge easily. If the magic effect was proportional to the caster’s mana and magic power, then the ability of Ram Hwajung, who used the ice wall while running was…


‘It’s really tremendous.’

However, there was nothing that would not fall over after being bashed repeatedly.

The ice wall started to crack gradually under Kijung’s continuous shield charge. C-c-craaack- The ice wall cracked and distorted.

“At last. We will breakthrough at once!”

Kijung shouted and jumped forward. His guildmates followed him closely behind.

Baaang—!

Kijung finally broke through the wall.

When the 12-meter high ice wall got broken, countless shards of ice flew around.

“Naisu! Continue chasing…”

And Kijung saw them. Their distance from the Ram Sisters was only 40 meters. Blue light entered Ram Hwajung’s body.

“Oh? Continuous cas-”

“Gust.”

“-ting?”

Ram Hwajung stretched out her small hand. However, the cold wind blowing from her hand was colder than Siberia’s biting wind.

“Bwaaah—-!”

“Waaaah!”

“T-this, why is my HP dropping like this? Heal! Heal!”

“I-I am not able to cast! M-my v-vision is red-!”

The cold wind came rushing in and the healer’s were not able to withstand the pressure/chill.

‘Gust? Gust can cause this much damage? Why does it deal damage?’

Wasn’t Gust a magic used to cool the wind when it’s hot? He heard that it blows cold wind at most, however… Kijung felt flustered.

Because it would have taken a huge amount of mana to create such a cold wind.

The vision of dealers and mages slowly started to turn red.

Sounds of something hitting the shield could be heard.

Kakakang- Tatang-!

‘……surely?’

Kijung noticed what was happening and screamed in a hurry.

“Everyone, get behind the tankers! It’s because- it’s because of the ice shards!”

The reason why they suffered so much from Ram Hwajung’s Gust, was because the gust carried the sharp shards of ice with the wind.

It was the shards of ice that were the fragments of the ice wall.

“No way! Such an attack was possible- Kaaak.”

At the same time, another dealer died.

It was impossible to stand in the strong wind, so casting was not possible at all. Since the healers were not able to cast, the mages and dealers were not able to withstand it and were the first to fall.

It was the worst situation.

Did she take advantage of the Ice Wall’s debris?

It was a magic technique that Kijung had never heard of or even imagined.

‘That’s crazy. That’s why I can’t help but hate Ram Hwajung.’

The Cryomancer Ram Hwajung, a Middle Earth genius.

“The wind will not last long! Hold on a little longer!”

Kijung saw that the number of ice shards hitting his shield had decreased. The wind that was cutting through the skin suddenly stopped as though it had never happened.

“Heal, maintain formation!”

The tankers and the melee dealers were barely hanging on to their health and the surviving healers started casting heal in a hurry.

“Kay! What happened!”

“We have cornered them, Guild Master.”

Hyein was also able to see it.

The Ram Sisters looked at the Byulcho Guild who cornered them in the canyon from three sides..

“Ram sisters! Why do you keep running away when we only wanted to have a chat?”

“Ha, do we have anything to talk about with you bastards?”

Ram Hwayeon shouted at Hyein’s words.

“Of course you do. I have sent a couple of messages related to your donations to Dale Castle.”

“It’s my money, why does that concern you?”

“Why? Because we were working on it. You know that. Why are you obsessed with that small fortress and leaving the famous cities alone? Even when you knew that we were working on it.”

“I am also a citizen of the Fibiel Kingdom in Middle Earth. Do I need your permission to invest in a fortress of my own country?”

Ram Hwayeon did not back down.

There was nowhere to run away. During the conversation with Hyein, a significant number of reinforcements had arrived.

Byulcho Guild, dragon Knight Guild, seogwang Guild.

Although there were quite a few casualties caused by Ram Hwajung, there were still more than 40 people left.

Even in that situation, the eldest daughter of the Hong Kong Ram Long group was still calm.

“As you know, when it comes to winning titles and commercial rights with donations… getting 2nd place is like getting the last place. If you pour in your money like crazy, there’s no room for us.”

“Can’t you spend more money? Why don’t you donate more money?”

“It’s not that easy to do. So there is a thing called mutual understanding and negotiation. Isn’t that right? After all, you’re not rightfully spending your money from Middle Earth. It’s not something to brag about when you have the backing of a large corporation.”

“You are funny. This is business. Haven’t you seen a company spend money?”

The two did not say a word to each other.

“All of my guild members are recording. Give up all your rights to Dale castle here…… no. Hand it over. I’ll give you a fair price. Otherwise…”

“You’re going to kill us?”

In response to Ram Hwayeon’s question, Hyein stepped forward.

Now, there was no one in front of Hyein. The guild members behind him were not able to see his face.

“Killing in Middle Earth is not good. Isn’t this place like reality? There might be… worse things…… than… dying. You know?”

Hyein’s face had a disgusting smile on his face.

“Unfortunate bastard.”

Ram Hwayeon let out a rough sound. Ram Hwajung was still expressionless.

“Everyone, prepare for battle! Dragon Knight Guild and Seomgwang guild, please follow our instructions!”

“Okay, our guild master already informed us.”

“Same goes for us.”

Swords, shields, arrows, and magic flashed and looked like they were ready to attack at any moment.

Hyein, who was in front of them, smiled.

Now, the only way Ram Hwayeon could get out of here alive would be to transfer her rights to Dale Castle to Hyein.

Before she got a disgrace worse than death.

“Hwajung-ah?”

“Yes, unni.”

Ram Hwajung only spoke, but Hyein and everyone flinched. Worried and nervous about whether she would cast or not.

“There are forty-four people in front. The ten who were trying to block the escape had been dealt with.”

“Forty-four…. Is that all you Koreans got?”

However, Ram Hwayeon’s words surprised Hyein more than Ram Hwajung’s casting. Did they catch the ones that were blocking the retreat? Forty-four people are too few?

“W-what do you mean?”

“Don’t underestimate us. Fire arrow!”

Ram Hwayeon finished casting in an instant.

(To be continued…)

Notes: I’m don’t know why, but it appears that Kijung’s shield charging skill has no cooldown.🤔🤔
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However, the Fire Arrow was not meant for Hyein.

It went to… the sky.

As the fire arrow crossed a certain distance, it naturally disintegrated and disappeared.

“What are you doing? Noone can come by using space magic anyway.”

Are reinforcements going to come now? Hyein expected that.

However, since one of Korea’s greatest mages, sage Hyein, locked the dimension, few could break through space.

‘No, more than that…… Did she just say that they killed the team blocking the retreat path? Sasuke and the separate group?’

Ram Hwayeon’s behavior was also suspicious, but Ram Hwajung’s words made more impact than that.

How? Who? Sasuke has long passed level 200.

Someone appeared that could deal with a Kuroninja at level 212?

Although Sasuke was lower leveled than Hyein himself, he was still one of the best. Wouldn’t it take all day just to keep track of his movements?

“If it’s space movement magic…. I know it too, sage Hyein. Among the mages who deal with space magic in Middle Earth, who has the highest level? Even though I am at a low level, I don’t lack the knowledge. We have Hwajung too.”

Ram Hwayeon smiled brightly in contrast to Hyein’s expression.

The frustration was greater than the joy he had earlier. The attitude they had now was not something a cornered person should have, same as the fire arrow earlier.

‘Damn it! Do they have something up their sleeves? No, it shouldn’t matter now.’

Ram Hwayeon did not want to hand over her rights to Hyein herself?

He will just have to give them a taste.

The humiliation that only a woman could feel, a disgrace that could be given in virtual reality that was implemented like reality.


“… Crazy bitches. Power cas-”

” STOP!”

“-ting… What?”

There was a sudden echo on the canyon. A heavy voice resounded through Tiwi Canyon.

“Kak, I-I have a status ailment! Cure!”

“I also have one?”

“Abnormal Status?”

Hyein hurriedly looked back. A few people fell down.

“Who is it!”

Hyein screamed in a fit.

Who intervened just now…

There was no one better than Ram Hwayeon in their guild, additionally, there was no one who could give status ailments with just a shout.

“N…No. Guild Master-nim!”

“H-Hyein-nim! Over-over there!”

“What, these bastards… this…”

A significant number of silhouettes appeared above the canyon.

He did not dare to count them. With a single glance, there should be at least 200, no, 300.

But, what was more surprising was that they were all wearing the same uniform.

Dark-colored clothes with a hint of red.

Engraved in their chest was embroidery in the shape of a yellow dragon.


“Hwangryong Guild.”

“Damn it! Why are these bastards here!”

Hyein felt annoyed.

Why did such useless bastards appear in this situation? Worst of all, they were the Hwangryong Guild…

“Why are you here? Do you have any business here?”

Hyein shouted. The fact that such a vast number of people appeared at this time meant that it was not because of hunting.

‘Didn’t they have a small argument with the Ram sisters…?’

Did they come here looking for them as well? To catch the Ram sisters fighting against Byulcho? No. No matter how I think about it, the timing was odd.

‘The fact that they appeared after Ram Hwayeon shot the Fire Arrow is also…’

An ominous thought appeared in Hyein’s head.

After all, the Hwangryong Guild in China and the Ram Sisters’ Guild in Hong Kong can communicate easily.

‘We Koreans joined forces… Did they join forces too?’ Hyein gritted his teeth.

If it was just the Ram Sisters’ Guild, they would continue the plan. Although it was not an all-out war, various tactics have been planned and implemented in order to create the current situation.

But the problem was… the Hwangryong Guild.

They were one of the strongest guilds in Asia, not only in terms of numbers but also in terms of skill.

The Chinese have established a huge number of guilds in Middle Earth. Because they have a large population, it was natural that there were also many guilds gathered.

However, the Chinese have come to a decision on who was the best among them.

Hwangryong.

A guild that could match even the leading European and American Guilds. It was unavoidable. Because he was in the Hwangryong Guild.

A shadow jumped from the canyon. A person who came down the canyon at great speed stood next to the Ram sisters.


Hyein recognized him at a glance.

“Pei Wu…”

“Ni hao, nice to meet you. Koreans. I am the Martial Artist Pei Wu.”

The man bowed and politely greeted them.

Fourth in the world ranking. Second place in the Asian ranking. Number one in Chinese ranking.

The Martial Artist Pei Wu stood in front of the Byulcho Guild.

‘Damn it’

Hyein clenched his teeth.

When an unknown group appeared, he was taken aback for a while, but when he saw Pei Wu, from Hwangryong Guild, stand next to Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, he knew that the situation was over.

‘Is that it? Their enmities have already been resolved. And it’s not even a compromise. If they are allies… Did they have a secret agreement? Damn it! Those Rambitches have the money and Pei Wu has the power. Besides, Pei Wu is in need of a lot of money lately… It must have been a perfect fit.’

The seat of a Guild Master is not a position for friendship. Pei Wu, who fell from the third to the fourth in the world ranking, wanted to get back what was his.

It was natural that a lot of human and material resources were needed for that.

What about the Ram Sisters of Hong Kong? They must have needed the Golden Dragons’ strength in order to protect themselves as they grew.

Besides, there was also Ram Hwajung, the 9th in the world ranking as well as the ranker Pei Wu, in order to help Ram Hwayeon level up.

They are in a symbiotic relationship. It was only natural for the two guilds to join forces after settling their differences.

There was no idiot that would prefer a profitable relationship.

‘Should I just back off? ……No way. We have worked so hard in order to get here.’

Even if he didn’t ask, Hyein knew why Pei Wu was here.

In fact, the situation had changed just by his appearance.

However, Hyein couldn’t back off. He opened his mouth to try and probe the situation.

“What are you doing here? We don’t have anything to do with the Hwangryong Guild.”

“Haha, you don’t. However, we can’t allow you to touch Ram Hwajung-nim and Ram Hwayeon-nim.”

Hyein suddenly had a thought. Pei Wu went straight to the point. Besides ‘nim’?

“They say that Hwangryong Guild and the Ram Sisters don’t have anything to do with each other-”

“You don’t need to know that.”

Ram Hwayeon cut off Hyein, and with the arrival of their reinforcement, the situation was completely reversed.

“First, leave this place. We don’t want any unnecessary fights. Second, in the future, do not talk about Dale Castle. As long as you follow these two things, you can do whatever you want. If you want to fight using money or declare a guild war, I will accept it. However! I will not tolerate schemes like this.”

Ram Hwayeon took a step forward.

“If you threaten a woman again, I will never forgive you.”

Ram Hwayeon was rather tolerant.

As they heard that there would be no slaughter today, the guild members behind Hyein sighed a breath of relief.

“Hyein-hyungnim. We should just back-”

“Silence. Do not speak.”

Hyein cut off the words of the guild member that approached him. But he knew, it was already too late.

‘Damn it! He’d rather keep the tension… the two conditions were not normal.’

Was Ram Hwayeon that generous? Because she did not want to see blood? No way.

Even a cornered mouse would bite a cat.

Ram Hwayeon knew that if she gave them a way out, they would not have the heart to resist.

‘If I did not cast the Dimension Lock, I would have tried to fight.’

What if Sasuke and the detached team didn’t leave? And what if there was no space containment? Would it have been possible to deal some damage with Blink and Dimensionsional Distortion?

‘Pei Wu is a handful. However, killing Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon would break their momentum-’

There was nothing they could do against Pei Wu, the world’s third ranker.

Obviously, individual fights would be better for Koreans, but with their level, things were completely different. Moreover, the situation was already difficult because the Hwangryong Guild held the number advantage.

If they fought, they would lose. Definitely.

‘User your head……. your head!’

However, he was not able to think of a solution. Unless reinforcements appeared, the alliance of the guilds with the 4th and 9th world rankers cannot be dealt with by some of Korea’s middle-ranked guilds with lesser numbers.

“Can you give me an answer, byeolcho’s Guild Master, sage Hyein?”

Ram Hwayeon smiled. A smile of a perfect winner.

Hyein realized that he did not have a choice but to admit defeat.

“Okay, if it’s like this..”

“Who’s that? Aak!”

A commotion suddenly broke out over the canyon.

“Huh?”

“What?”

Everyone at the bottom of the canyon, including Hyein, Ram Hwayeon and Pei Wu, raised their heads.

Chwaak—!

A stream of blood suddenly spewed out from above.

Even from a distance, it was a lot of blood. However, the blood soon spread like water vapor and disappeared.

‘Dead? It didn’t turn gray, but it disappeared like a mist? What’s going on?’

Hyein looked at Ram Hwayeon and Pei Wu before organizing his thoughts. What was it anyway, was it part of Ram Hwayeon’s plan?

And then, he realized.

‘It was an unexpected situation!’

He was able to tell right away. Ram Hwayeon’s eyes were shaking.

However, Pei Wu and Ram Hwajung were different. Whatever it was, they were able to recognize it. Even Pei Wu’s expression was somewhat distorted.

“Hwajung-nim, please get ready.”

“Unni, stand back.”

“Hwajung-ah? What’s happening? Pei Wu-ssi?”

Ram Hwayeon did not want their momentum to disappear. However, Ram Hwajung grabbed her sister’s wrist tightly and dragged her.

Ram Hwayeon was flustered by Ram Hwajung’s attitude. It was the first time she saw her little sister getting confused ever since she started Middle Earth.

And just as the blood mist disappeared, a man appeared above the canyon.

“Heeeey–! So you were all gathered here?”

It was quite a distance, but everyone at the bottom of the canyon was able to recognize him.

There were few users in Middle Earth who used a sword with a red blade.

After all, it was not even a sword. It would have been better to call it a giant saw.

And there was only one person in Middle Earth who used such a weapon.

“A-ag…”

“Berserker……? Igor……”

“Agromni Igor!”

“Third in the World Ranking, agromni Igor!”

The eyes of hundreds of people gathered in the Tiwi Canyon focused on one place. The Russian Berserker immediately cast a skill.

“Hahaha, you haven’t been bothering me for these past few days, so you bastards are all gathered here…! Bwahahaha!”

Blood Cross!

A bloody cross appeared in the sky. When attacking an area, the damage is reduced depending on the number of targets. Fury!

Hair protruded from the white giant’s body.

He looked like a werewolf. His movement and attack speed increased in exchange for continuously decreasing HP.

“Thanks for the food! (Приятного аппетита!, 잘 먹겠습니다! Bon appetit! Ittadakimasu!)”

Kaaaa—-!

A roar that was of a completely different nature from Pei Wu.

At the same time as the cry of a beast, the Giant, with a height of 2m and 83cm, and weight of 190kg, disappeared.

“Shit.”

The Martial Artist Pei Wu went up the canyon in a single jump.

The first person to react to Igor was Pei Wu. The fourth-ranked Martial Artist ran without looking back, and the next person to react was….

“Byulcho, dragon Knight, seogwang! Attack! The goals are Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung! We only need to kill the two of them and we will achieve our goal!”

It was the sage Hyein.

(To be continued…)
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“What is that guy doing? Why is he not answering?”

What worried him the most was that Kijung and the sisters were at the same location.

Leeha continued to whisper to Kijung in order to know the situation, but he did not reply.

Kijung didn’t even know that the Ram Sisters and Leeha knew each other.

In the end, Leeha could only guess what the situation was. At least, he needed to get a reply before knowing anything.

Tii—♦.

No reply came, so there was no way to know.

‘Damn it! I’m getting nervous…

‘ It was highly likely that a fight broke out. So? That was not his problem. Leeha had other things to do. Maybe someday, he would find out anyway.

After whispering to Kijung for a long time, Leeha finally moved.

His original purpose was to learn a little about Browless.

If he was the director of the academy, he would be a famous NPC anyway, and there would be many people who knew him, besides Kijung.

‘For example, the NPCs in Aelstock.’

Maybe he could find out more, than asking Kijung.

Users only experienced things that happened after Middle Earth opened, but NPCs might even know the events from the past.

‘And to ask that…?’

A place with a lot of old NPCs.

Leeha went to the pub. He marked it when he was together with Kijung, and in fact, it was opposite the weapon shop, so he only needed to open the map and he was good to go.


“Hey, hey, did you hear me?”

“What?”

“The internet is currently in turmoil. It was said that a huge incident happened in Tiwi Canyon.”

“What happened?”

“Ram Hwajung, Pei Wu, and Igor appeared and there was a battle. Three world rankers gathered and got completely destroyed?”

“Huh? What are you talking about? Why did they fight?”

“I don’t know, I heard it had something to do with a Korean guild. They were tied up in such a place. More than 200 people died.”

Leeha’s steps stopped.

“More than 200? Dead?”

“Yeah. That’s no joke. Lately, chinese users have been interfering with Agromni Igor’s level up.

Wasn’t it reported that the Chinese, who were getting ahead using quantity, got completely wiped out this time?”

“Wow! That’s amazing! It happened while we were arguing with each other, does this mean there is going to be a war between Igor and Pei Wu?”

“Let’s take a look. Someone I know hid in Tiwi Canyon and is currently watching.”

“Is he recording?”

“Of course he is. If such an incident happened, wouldn’t a video being circulated on the internet soon?”

Leeha stopped and listened quietly.

He did not know what exactly happened, but he was able to make a rough guess.

The main focus of the users’ conversation was on Igor and Pei Wu, but Leeha was aware of another conflict in Tiwi Canyon.

‘Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Kijung’s guild… Those two must have fought. Pei Wu is Chinese. Did Ram Hwayeon bring him in? What about the Russian…? Did Kijung’s guild bring him- No. I don’t think they can, with Hyein’s personality. Then? Did those people follow the Chinese?’

As the other users have said, agromni Igor outranked Pei Wu and got into trouble. It was a reasonable guess.


‘It could have been. If there were people chasing you every day and hindering your level up, even I would want to kill them all.’

Leeha opened the friend’s window again to see if there were any changes, and the friend window looked different from before.

‘Sasuke logged out.’

Did he die? Even if they were added as friends, it was not possible to know their HP status.

‘Kijung is still alive. The same for Hyein. Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung are currently online. Dead?’

In an instant, the light next to Kijung’s name disappeared.

-Kijung! Kijung-ah!

Leeha tried to whisper to him, but the transmission failed. Kijung got logged out.

‘Dead… Did he die? Kijung?’

What happened?

‘If there really was a battle, tankers were in the most danger.’ After he saw Kijung log out, Tale followed…

‘Did their defenses get breached?’

Kijung and Tale were logged out almost simultaneously, and Ram Hwayeon logged out soon after.

Now, there were only two people left in his friend’s window.

Hyein from Byulcho Guild, and Ram Hwajung.

Their locations instantly changed. They disappeared from Tiwi Canyon almost simultaneously and appeared in a different place. Hyein appeared at Saber Castle and Ram Hwajung at Doma River.

‘The two of them moved at the same time! Is it over? Or did they run away? What happened?’

In the end, he was not able to stand it anymore.

‘Browless can wait. I need to collect information on the Kobold anyway.’

It wasn’t bad to log out once in a while.


Leeha got out of Middle Earth with much difficulty.

“Phew…”

He checked the time as soon as he got out, it was 3pm.

He logged in in the morning and he had already spent a few days in Middle Earth so far, but in reality, it was only the afternoon.

“However, it’s not worth it. In other words, if I waste time in reality, I would lose a few days in Middle Earth.”

Leeha moved to his wheelchair and quickly went to the computer. Of course, he did not forget to call Kijung on the way.

-Yes, ahh.

“Hey, what is going on? You did not answer my whispers. What happened?”

After a while, he heard Kijung’s voice, but it had no strength in it.

-Ah, did you call me? Sorry. I am… a little tired.

“Ram-…… No, it’s on the internet now! Did you die? Did you fight?”

Leeha wondered, did he fight Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung? He was about to ask.

No matter how curious he was, Leeha did not want to start a misunderstanding for no reason. It was strange to mention their name first.

– Hyung heard it too. Yes, Ram Hwajung was really…… strong. The world rankers are really strong- Heup, heuk.

“Kijung-ah?”

Kijung’s voice suddenly stopped. It seemed like the receiver had been blocked, but Leeha heard the sound of breathing and crying for a long time.

Leeha waited patiently until Kijung cleared his voice and spoke again.

-Hyung. hurry and level up as well. If you don’t want to look bad. I died and leveled down… From now on, I will go on a rampage without paying attention to anything else. I might not be able to help hyung.

“R-right. Okay. I understand. I have to grow alone as well. You are also one of the experts of Korea. You’ll be fine. Cheer up.”

-Yes, thanks. I’m tired, I need to sleep. I’ll hang up now.

Leeha put down his phone and sighed. Level 198, no, he died, so he should be level 197. If a tanker like Kijung lost his spirit like this, how strong were they?

‘The three people in the world rankings 3rd, 4th and 9th…’

Kijung said that he will reach level 200 soon, he was one of the strongest users in Korea. For such a person to shed tears…

Leeha wanted to know.

Right now, there was only one topic in the community. It’s the battle the people dubbed as the “Tiwi Canyon Battle”.

『Title: Wow… Is that possible? He killed over a hundred people by himself.』

『 Title: Pei Wu’s moves are awesome. I’m going to learn martial arts too.』

『Title: Ram Hwajung’s move casting is godlike.』

『Title: (Improved Quality) Tiwi Canyon Battle video』

List of posts to be updated…

There were no posts about questions. 100% of the posts were all related to the Tiwi Canyon Battle. Leeha clicked the top post.

『Title: Wow…… Is that possible? He killed over a hundred people by himself. Byulcho, dragon Knight and Seogwang, aren’t they guilds that are from Seoul? – What are they in front of Agromni Igor? LOLOLOL There’s a difference between a rabbit and a troll.

– What’s even scarier is that the members of the Chinese Guild, hwangryong, have an average level higher than 100.

– There were several level 170s among Dragon Knight and Seomgwang. They all died.

-Wow, is there such a huge difference between level 100 and level 200?

– No, what are you talking about? Agromni Igor must have been over 250.

-ㄴ what are you talking about? No matter how you look at it, he should be higher level than Pei Wu. Pei Wu was like 259 a while ago. Igor must be at 260.

– Isn’t there only 1 or 2 level difference between Pei Wu and Igor?

-ㄴ There’s not much difference when it’s only 1 or 2 points, but when there is a 5 to 10 point difference, that would have a big impact, lOL What is your level anyway?

Among the comments, the most eye-catching one was the level. Agromni Igor’s estimated level.

‘260?’

The level-up speed was so slow that he was not able to check how much experience was required every time he leveled up.

Leeha also killed hundreds of bats and spiders at level 25 but he only got to level 26. Not to mention 260. It was 10 times the level difference from Leeha.

However, just because there were 10 times the level difference, it didn’t mean that Leeha could win if there were ten of him. Even if there were less than a hundred people, there must be a huge difference in skill level that was difficult to beat.

Every level meant additional 5 stat points.

Leeha knew how important each of those stat points was with every level up.

『Title: Pei Wu’s movements are awesome. I’m going to learn martial arts too.』

Crazy LOL I am not able to see it properly, I don’t even know how to do that.

I’m level 95, but even if I have the same level as Pei Wu, I won’t be able to hit him.

-I saw in the video that someone who uses a 2-handed sword hit Pei Wu. Is that person an expert too?

– It was probably the Highlander Tale, the strongest Highlander in Byulcho. He’s also an expert

-ㄴ Yes, Pei Wu kicked him three times and died, he’s clearly an expert.

– ㄴLOL You don’t know shit. He got hit by Ram Hwajung’s Area of Effect skill, that was the reason why he died in three hits. LOL ‘Three hits?’

The swordsman that was an actual martial artist, got done in with three hits? No matter how strong the magic was, to die in three hits was hard to believe.

‘No, if it’s Ram Hwajung’s magic, as they say, then they would have died immediately. Rather, it was amazing that Tale, who was not even level 200, could withstand one hit.’

Because it was Ram Hwajung.

To survive after getting hit by the magic of the 9th in the world ranking. Besides, she was a Cryomancer, it was obvious that her attacks would cause the target to slow down.

If you were able to hit Pei Wu after that, that alone was enough for you to be considered an expert.

(To be continued…)

Notes:

LOLOLOL /LOL (Kukukuku) – Sound of laughter

ㄴ – No

More info here.
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There were additional comments, but most of them were praise and admiration for Tale.

Normal users did not even think of turning off the combat assistance system. Such people would not even be able to dream of Tale’s movements.

『Title: Ram Hwajung’s move casting is godlike.』

I fell in love with move casting. What magic did she use against Igor? A tree suddenly appeared… and I fell in love for a second time. I love you, hwajeong-ssi!

-Yeah, even if you write it here, Ram Hwajung won’t see it. ㅅㄱ

-ㄴ Bastard.

-Summoning a willow tree made of ice. Isn’t that ‘Frost Wallow’?

It’s both offense and defense at the same time. Not long ago, I heard that only NPCs were able to use such magic, but there’s someone who could use it already.

It’s ranked number one among Cryomancers, of course, a noob like you couldn’t compare.

‘I can’t get enough of just hearing about it.’

One would not be able to tell just by looking at the articles on the internet. Leeha clicked the next post with an attached video.

『Title: (Thumbnail) Tiwi Canyon War video』

The cameraman died in about 15 minutes, so I don’t know how it ended…. Other angles are fine, so if you have a video, please share it. If you send it to me, I can combine it and create a highlight.

– Author-nim, can I use parts of the video? I am from SBC Today Middle Earth broadcasting team. I would like to speak to you.

‘If it is like this, you’ll have no choice but to get interested.’

Today Middle Earth’s reaction was as expected.

The change in the rankings was a surprise, how much more for three of the world’s top rankers fighting against each other. Wouldn’t it be the best clickbait to raise their ratings?

‘And this is the video…’

Leeha barely calmed his pounding heart and went to the YTube site where the video got linked.


The video was only 15 minutes long. However, there were already 5 languages that could be seen in the comments section.

Korean, chinese, Japanese, english, russian?

The video was updated less than 30 minutes ago. However, the total number of views had already exceeded 2 million.

Leeha pressed the play button.

“What happened?”

The light purple light flashed and the cameraman turned to the direction a sound was heard.

There were people hunting Mountain Goats and Golden Eagles inhabiting Tiwi Canyon. There was a brief buzzing sound. Their estimated level was around level 60.

“Let’s go. Something must have happened.”

“Oh! Oh!! What is that?! That!”

The cameraman’s point of view looked up at the sky.

A huge cross was seen, the bloody cross drawn in the sky was terrifying.

“Huh? Oh, there’s a fight! There must have been a fight!”

Whoah. There were people. When the shaking was over and the users poked their heads out of the canyon.

Kyaaaah—!!

“Wow! What is this? This is abnormal!”

“Wow, that was amazing! Isn’t that Agromni Igor?”

“Who jumped up the cliff? Was it Pei Wu? Was that the Martial Artist Pei Wu?”

The fight just started.

Berserker Agromni Igor slaughtered the members of the Hwangryong Guild that besieged the Koreans on the canyon.

Each time his giant saw-like sword was swung, his arms, legs, and neck bulged.


Every time his attacks ended, rather than slice, it ripped his targets apart, with the blood that splattered into the air turned into red mist and got absorbed by Agromni Igor replenishing his HP.

“This guy! Stop him!”

“Kitay! How does it feel to be interrupted with your business? Huaaap!”

Pei Wu kicked the saw-like sword wielded by the giant nearly 3m tall man. The saw-like sword bounced off after only getting kicked.

“That’s Agromni Igor and Pei Wu, right?”

“Tsk!”

The cameraman watched the battle of the experts while holding his breath, however, he was not able to properly see the movements of the sword and feet.

He was unable to follow the movements of a 200kg giant? Does it make sense?

“Stop!”

“Haha, are those bitches your weakness?”

Agromni Igor who was in an intense battle with Pei Wu changed his target.

The giant leaped into the canyon in an instant.

Pei Wu ran on ‘air’ to follow him!

It was the only way the cameraman could explain what happened as the Martial Artist changed direction mid-air.

“Kyaaak! B-Berserker!”

“Come here, unni. Frost Willow!”

Ram Hwajung finished casting before the Berserker hit the ground.

A huge willow tree rose from the ground.

However, it was different as it was made of ice.

“What, what is this? Byulcho attack only the willow tree!”


Hyein shouted.

They could kill the Ram sisters while Pei Wu was preoccupied with Agromni Igor! If they could achieve that, they would have fulfilled their intended purpose.

However, byeolcho Guild members were not able to reach Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon.

“Cough.”

“What is this? I can’t tell you Asian pipsqueaks apart!”

Because Agromni Igor could not distinguish between Chinese and Koreans.

Berserker literally meant mad(狂) warrior.

Everything he saw was an enemy, they were nothing more than ‘lunch’ that could replenish his HP.

One member of the Dragon Knight Guild was torn into pieces and his blood was absorbed. There was no word that could explain such a scene.

Nightmare?

In front of the strength that was enough to blow the souls of the onlookers away, agromni Igor changed his target while running towards Ram Hwajung.

Agromni Igor instinctively sensed the amount of power contained by the Frost Willow and said.

“Kwahahahaha, it would be better to kill these Asian pipsqueaks rather than destroy that thing!”

“Ah…… Uh……”

Sage Hyein was not even able to move.

It was not the scenario of the battle like he had thought. How should he deal with the situation? Would he be able to stop that monster?

“All tankers protect the Guild Master. Maintain the formation! Dealers, stand back! Healer, use your buffs!”

After Igor jumped down the canyon, the first to react from the Korean Guild Alliance was Kijung.

Kijung shouted and stood in the formation along with the tankers with their shields raised. Behind them were Tale and the other nearby dealers.

The madman with burning-red eyes ran towards them.

Four-legged(四技) sprint.

“Kwahahahaha, great, it’s enough as long as I kill Kitays! Blood Jet!”

Bloody color enveloped the originally red sword. Blood condensed into the great sword. High-pressured water could even penetrate concrete and steel.

Then what about High-pressured blood?

The hardness and sharpness of the blood-coated greatsword were indescribable.

Claaaaang—!

When the Giant swung his greatsword once, three tankers bounced. Before they could stabilize themselves, the greatsword swung again and cut their throats.

Still, the Berserker did not stop.

“Bwahahahaha!”

Berserker is a profession that not only uses blood for skills but also absorbs it. Five blood spheres(血球) floated in the air.

“Blood-”

“No, you don’t!”

Paaak!

Pei Wu kicked the 3m giant in his face.

The casting was canceled and the blood spheres disappeared, and Igor and Pei Wu faced each other again.

“You freaking slippery bastard!”

“Are you only good at picking on the weak, you hyena! Let’s fight one on one fair and square!”

The battlefield started to become chaotic again.

“H-hurry up, now! Get those Ram bitches! Tale hyung, hurry!”

Hyein shouted while trembling. It was because he was in an exhausted state that he was unable to cast any magic as he put all his energy into Dimension Lock.

“Okay, Guild Master.”

Tale stepped forward. Their goal was the Frost Willow that wrapped around Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, protecting them.

The ice willow waved its numerous branches and sprayed ice shards.

However, to Tale, who was able to precisely cut an ice spear in half, the random shards were only a minor nuisance.

Tale raised his two-handed sword and approached the willow tree while avoiding its attacks using a foot technique unique to a Kumdo practitioner.

“I’m sorry, girls. But it’s for the sake of our guild!”

Taaak!

The branches of the willow came down and protected them.

As the icy leaves and branches tried to cover them, there was hardly any gap in sight.

Even Tale’s sword froze from the tip.

“Keuk, is it trap-type magic?”

He hurriedly withdrew his sword, but the ice at the top kept spreading.

Starting from his sword, his hands, body, and legs also froze.

His attack was stopped by the sprayed ice shards from a distance.

One of the strongest magic, the Frost Willow was a defensive ability that protected its caster, it also had the ability to freeze everything it touched.

Even when Tale got hit, he was not able to do anything about it.

There was currently no available information about the highest level magics at the moment.

“Quick… ly… move…”

He had a hard time opening his mouth, let alone move his feet. When Tale barely backed away, Pei Wu immediately ran towards Tale when he sensed danger for Ram Sisters.

“Hwayeon-nim, hwajeong-nim! This guy doesn’t even know about gratitude!”

Pei Wu was angry.

To think that he helped the Koreans, and they joined forces to attack the Ram Sisters without facing Agromni Igor?

“Cyclone Kick!”

“Kahak, high Lunge!”

And the three-way battle started. Although the video quality was improved, it was still blurry, however, it was still manageable for Leeha.

Tale’s movement to avoid Pei Wu’s continuous kicks even when his body was frozen.

Tale succeeded in reaching Pei Wu and stabbed his shoulder, using his two-handed sword, but immediately after that, Pei Wu’s lightning-fast kick hit Tale’s temple.

With his speed slowed down and after getting hit in the temple, Tale was not able to react properly.

“Please become a person that knows honor.”

Pei Wu raised his feet in front of Tale, who was on his knees.

No matter where he got hit, Tale would die.

“Tale-hyungnim!!! Shield Charging!”

Boom–!

Dust rose.

A Templar came to rescue his comrade. And Leeha recognized who it was.

‘Kijung…’

Even though the video was shot in the distance, he could hear it clearly. Kijung’s voice.

The silver knight rushed towards Pei Wu’s attack.

Boom, Kijung successfully blocked the attack by raising his shield while running.

However, he focused on rescuing Tale without attacking Pei Wu.

Of course, Pei Wu did not stand idly.

“There! A templar speed could- Kuooh!”

Pei Wu who chasing Kijung, flew and crashed into a cliff.

“Huu, huu. It took too much blood to catch a slippery bastard like you.”

Agromni Igor blew Pei Wu away in a single strike.

Was it a Berserker skill? Maybe it was because he was injured while dealing with a lot of people in Tiwi Canyon.

Blood flowed from the Giant’s eyes, ears, nose, and mouth.

It was Leeha’s first time seeing someone who could smile with a blood-stained face. What would he feel if he faced someone like that?

“Kuooh, b-blood! I need blood!”

The Russian Berserker wandered in search of ‘food’ to replenish his HP. No, he didn’t need to wander. Because there was someone next to him.

“T-Tale-hyungnim, Tale-hyungnim!”

“Ka… y…”

Kijung tapped Tale’s cheek to wake him up, but he did not get any response. He was able to heal himself, however, templars were not able to heal others.

‘Do I need to carry him to a healer?’

“Haha, I heard your name being called… Are you Koreans? Goryeo-person and Kitay(Chinese). You look like annoying bastards.”

“Ah… ah…”

Agromni Igor began to approach them.

Tale, who was already dazed, could not even counterattack.

What about Kijung?

He jumped.

He tried his best. He mobilized all the attack skills he was able to use.

However, the Berserker, who was 3rd in the world ranking, was strong.

‘Kijung-ah… Kijung-ah…! Damn it! Fucking Russian bastard!’

Leeha bit his lip. After watching the video, he burst into tears and did not notice that his lower lip cut and blood was coming out.

“Huhuhuhu.”

Cough, cough, cough, cough.

In the video, Kijung was beheaded by Agromni Igor’s saw-like greatsword.

The Russian Berserker raised the head of Leeha’s cousin and began absorbing blood.

(To be continued…)
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In the chaotic battle that looked more like a dogfight, where everyone did not know who was fighting who.

Hwajung’s spell, which began casting after she hid in the Frost Willow, was finally ready.

“Hwajung-ah, you… this magic…

“Unni. I’m sorry, but you have to die…”

“… I understand. It would be better for me to die.”

Hwayeon nodded her head.

It was magic she only saw once. It was an area of effect magic that did not choose its target. A huge amount of dark clouds quickly formed in the sky.

“Q-quick. You have to do it quickly!”

Bababang!

What the hell was happening outside the willow tree…

Surrounded by branches and leaves, she was not able to see what was going on, however, she could feel something hitting the Frost Willow from afar.

‘Pei Wu? Damn it! Everything is all over the place… There’s a bunch of stuff going on…….’

That Berserker is straight up slaughtering all Asians he sees. It would have been preferable, if Pei Wu and Agromni Igor had a one-on-one fight.

Berserkers use their own blood to cast skills.

In a 1:1 fight, berserker will have trouble recovering blood. But now?

There were low-level users everywhere.

Even if he got into a disadvantage while fighting Pei Wu. he only had to kill the low-level users and recover blood.

“Move.”


Shwaaaa-.

Frost Willow unleashed its protection at the will of its caster. Hwayeon was startled at the sudden change of the battle situation.

Tiwi Canyon became a bloody battlefield.

There were uncountable pools of blood and bodies scattered all over the place. What about the Koreans that came to catch Ram Hwayeon in the first place? They can no longer be identified.

Most of them would have died.

‘They wouldn’t even care if Hwajung showed up.’

Hwayeon looked at Byulcho’s Guild Master, Hyein, as he was unable to do anything because he was not able to use magic.

If a Sage can’t use magic, he would just be another corpse.

It seems like he was hiding behind his guild members and was waiting for a chance to escape.

“Hwajung-ah, kill them all!”

Ram Hwayeon called out and all the fighting stopped.

One of them was Igor, who was collecting blood from the members of the Byulcho Guild.. Pei Wu ran towards Igor. At the same time, the members of Dragon Knight and Hwangryong Guilds fought each other.

Everyone had the same thought.

Ram Hwajung must be stopped!

A huge amount of energy gathered at the Cryomancer, ice Witch Ram Hwajung’s fingertips.

“Stop it!!! If she casts that magic, it would all be over!”

While someone shouted in the midst of the chaos, Ram Hwajung reached out to the sky.

Ram Hwayeon looked at Ram Hwajung and smiled. She will definitely die.

This time, hwajeong didn’t conserve her strength, and her magic won’t distinguish between allies and enemies.

It would deal a huge amount of damage.


But it was fine.

Compared to the lives of the other experts here, her own death would be easier to recover.

For now, their priority was to conserve their strength and plan for the next course of action.

Who will be their ally? Who will be their enemy?

Where and how will the next battle happen? Will they join forces with the enemy of their enemy?. What would be their composition at that time?

‘And who else can be my strength?’

Hwayeon laughed. Troubles already started running through her head.

She was the eldest daughter of Ram Long(林龍) group and the next successor. She was a woman who studied at the Royal Academy.

“It’s late, you idiots.”

“Blizzard.”

The red-haired and the blue-haired woman opened their mouths at the same time.

The Cryomancer’s most powerful Area of Effect Magic (AoE), that used all of the caster’s mana, froze Tiwi Canyon.

“Oh, ooh. Blizzard!”

“Avoid it!”

In the video, the sky rumbled, howled and spewed out a storm mixed with hail.

All players who filmed the battle while laying down on the floor died, and Tiwi Canyon disappeared.

Chii—

A black screen appeared and a noise was heard for a while before the video ended.

Leeha was not able to move for a while.

He felt tears running down his cheeks.


‘Kijung-ah.’

After learning about the assimilation rate, Leeha had a conversation with Kijung.

Kijung proudly said that in order to be the best Templar, he had set it to the maximum value allowed.

That was, the assimilation rate would have been at 50%.

What happened when you raised your assimilation rate in Middle Earth? It was different from other games.

He would have felt 50% of the sensation of getting his head cut off by a saw-like greatsword.

How did he feel? No, at that point, when he spoke to Kijung earlier, he should have said that it was great that he was able to keep his sanity.

‘Agromni Igor……’

Leeha gritted his teeth.

Kijung was the one to lead him to Middle Earth, and gave him hope that he could earn money and heal his legs.

He would not be able to forget the bastard that cut off such a good guy’s head without hesitation.

‘What if I didn’t forgive him? I am only at level 26. What would happen if a level 26 did not forgive a level 260?’

He must have the strength.

Without strength, he could not do anything.

What if Leeha had the strength in the previous battle? What if he joined forces with Kijung or the Ram Sisters?

‘The location of the cameraman was about 230 meters away from the battle.’

Since the video was already edited, the enlargement and reduction were dramatic.

What if he actually saw it in Middle Earth?

230m was by no means close. It was barely enough to recognize a person with a smashed face?

It also required the assumption that there were no obstacles around. In his head, the street was no longer visible.

The equipment he wore, its color, and its level that could only be recognized by looking at its shape.

Leeha imagined.

He was now in the position of the cameraman. He was lying down and in a shooting posture.

‘The damned bastard approached Kijung to cut his neck. And me?’

Could he match it? If he had a modern rifle, he was confident. However, with a musket?

Moreover, the target was not stationary.

The giant moved incredibly fast for his height and weight.

Should he wait for him to stop moving?

It was almost impossible. To compensate for a Berserker’s weakness, agromni Igor hardly stopped.

No matter how many times he wanted to fight Pei Wu, he had to run around and suck, absorb and swallow the low-level user’s blood.

It was truly a great move.

‘If he shot loosely, I’ll be able to hit him.

Anyway, the target itself was big. Be it an arm, or thigh. I should be able to get one shot in. And after that?’

Agromni Igor would not wait to be killed by the musketeer from afar. How many seconds would it take to narrow 230m at that incredible speed?

Leeha’s neck would get cut off in no time.

He would not be able to tell without experiencing it.

It meant that the assumption of hitting the target was not enough. He should not just loosely shoot anywhere.

‘Instakill.’

He had to shoot a part where it would result in an instakill. If the target was a human, there were two places that could be aimed at.

The head and the heart.

‘Because he didn’t know what a giant heart is……. After all, there was only one.’

The head.

The fact that giants were larger than humans was no longer an advantage when limiting the target to the head.

He had to hit the target that was slightly larger than a human head from 230 meters away. It was someone who moves fast as well.

Leeha felt that the difficulty rose by 10 times in an instant.

‘In the end, I have no choice but to practice so that I can increase my accuracy and hit a moving target even from a long distance.’

Leeha looked for information with his slightly red eyes.

Whoever the Musket Academy’s Browless was, it didn’t matter anymore. He could always learn that.

What was important now?

To level up as quickly as possible, and to have the skills join that world as soon as possible.

‘I have to be strong. To join that world. And make money too. If I can become stronger, I can achieve it.’

The answer was always simple.

It was just the process that mattered.

“Phew, good. The first thing I need to do…”

Clean up my bag. Leeha disposed of all of his useless items by going to the weapon store, armor store and general store in the capital, aelstock.

Most of the items were the ones that were dropped by players who died from the Brown Bear field boss, agonia Oso.

There was no equipment that could be used by Leeha.

‘Most of them were swords and metal armors. I can’t even use those.’

Of course, even though he was in a hurry to level up, he did not have to rush.

He conversed and laughed with the shopkeepers.

No message appeared because he did not perform a separate quest, but when he left the shops, he felt that his intimacy had risen.

‘Phem, this is the proof.’

Really.

The sound of coins was heard when he shook his pocket. 4 gold danced in Leeha’s pocket, which was all of his fortunes.

He got 2 gold from selling the sundry items and he also got 2 gold from Kijung as support.

There were nine items that were dropped by users around level 25.

In Middle Earth, where equipment was already expensive, an armor that users around level 25 equipped needed to spend a fortune to buy.

Even if you resold used ones that have already been used, it would still cost dozens of silver.

‘How much money can one save at level 25? Maybe around 25 gold? Couldn’t it get up to 2 gold and 50 silver if I was really thrifty?’

Of course, Leeha himself, who used gunpowder and bullets, as well as long-ranged dealers who had to consume arrows would not be able to save that much.

‘Even if one managed to save 2 gold… the cost of a studded-leather armor, that a level 25 tanker can wear, costs 1 gold and 20 silver.

Since more than half of the saved money had already been spent on the armor, it was really not easy to get another one.

It was also the reason why there were so many articles complaining about returning their equipment in the community.

In any case, Leeha properly used the Bargaining skill and collected a total of 4 gold.

He had about 40 sets of gunpowder and bullets in stock.

Even after adding the 200 sets given to him before, he only had 40 sets left, it meant that a large amount of gunpowder and bullets were used to create the makeshift claymore.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha stopped by the bank to buy gunpowder and bullets under a contract with the wholesaler, bob.

He took out the items from the common safe and deposited the money.

‘4 copper for gunpowder and 1 copper for a bullet. He bought 260 sets for 5 copper per set. It was a total of 1,300 copper, which was equivalent to 13 silver.

He came out of the bank and everything was ready.

He could shoot a total of 300 rounds and he still had 3 gold and 87 silver.

He had some spare time now.

‘It’s a pity that I could not change my weapon, but I can’t help it.’

Leeha shook his head and looked at the low-class crude musket that was heavily stained with grime.

While dealing with the sundries, he asked for the price of a musket and even though it was not the best, it was ridiculously expensive.

‘The cost of a level 20 musket is 3 gold, I wouldn’t even use it because it’s dirty.’

Leeha was already level 26 and if he bought it, he would need to use all of his fortune for something that was of a lower level.

Rather, Leeha decided that it was better to save his money for now to buy a musket that was used at level 50, considering that his stats were already greater than an average level 30.

He finished all the necessary preparations!

‘Now, let’s-’

“Ara? You?”

“Huh?”

A hand held Leeha from behind. Who was it? He did not know anyone in the capital, aelstock.

“Do you remember me?”


The man asked Leeha if he remembered him.

Leeha looked carefully at the man’s face, but did not recognize him.

But his equipment reminded him of someone.

A shield was worn on each of the man’s arms.

“……Ah, ah. Yes. I remember. You were the one at the hunting ground, right?”

“Yes, that’s right! About a fortnight ago! I’m Petal Kim, I was in a party at the southern hunting ground!”

“Ah, yes.”

Why is this person suddenly acting all nice?

It was him who escaped and ignored Leeha when he asked for help.

As Petal Kim and his party members escaped, Leeha fought a life and death battle.

It was not an exaggeration to say that Petal Kim was the reason that Leeha almost got his first death in Middle Earth.

“Haha, nice to meet you. Like this.”

“What’s going on?”

Petal Kim held out his hand, but Leeha did not shake it.

“Heh, I see that you sold a lot of things today.”

His clumsy awkward smile was visible. Animosity burned in Petal Kim’s eyes.

“Yes?”

“The clothes you are wearing… As for the items you sold today…”

Petal Kim raised his head slightly and stared at Leeha.

“Did you pick it up? The coat, shoes, and cap… Aren’t those dropped by the Brown Bear? Did you also pick up all the items the users dropped?”


“What are you talking about?”

“Bullshit. Did you know how long and hard I tried looking for the bastard who picked up the items? I have watched the video a few hundred times. I got treated like a bastard in the community. I found him though. Where the low level musketeer heading to the capital went. What if he lived and did not get killed by the Brown Bear? What if he was the one who picked all the items up? I was sure he’ll be wandering around the academy or the armor store.”

Petal Kim’s eyes gleamed. Petal Kim’s image completely came to Leeha’s mind. He was smarter than Leeha expected.

He also had a lot of knowledge about Middle Earth, so he knew when the field boss would be enraged as well as how to hunt it.

Of course, he was so calculative that he ran away as soon as he predicted that the Brown Bear raid would fail.

“What do you mean? At that time, I definitely asked for help. Don’t you remember? You left me when I asked for help.”

“T-that. Because I didn’t think that a bastard like you could catch it-.”

“Right? But I succeeded. When you shrewdly took your party members and ran away, I fought and caught it by myself. So I took the loot, what’s the problem with that?”

Leeha was not ignorant either.

He knew that Petal Kim and his party members watched until he cried for help and ran away when he was reloading.

That was how they were.

They watched until the very end and ran away when they thought that he would fail the hunt.

“There.. there’s a problem. A lot of it. Don’t you visit the community often? It usually isn’t a problem.”

Petal Kim grinded his teeth.

Leeha knew about the community, but he wasn’t able to look at it lately because he had been spending a lot of time in Middle Earth.

What happened?

Petal Kim, who had been staring at Leeha for a while, opened his mouth.

“Phew, right. It sucks, but I’ll admit it. You can get all the field boss items. But, shouldn’t you give back what the users dropped?”

“Why?”

When Leeha confidently asked, Petal Kim got flustered.


“You’re asking me why? Of course, those were items that you got unfairly-.”

“Don’t you know what happens when you die in Middle Earth? Why are you talking like I’m some kind of lost and found counter?”

One’s level would decrease by 1 and be unable to connect for 48 hours.

As well as an item drop.

From Leeha’s point of view, he just acquired items that fell on the ground, as they were not from the same party or guild. He had no obligation to find the original owner.

It was a completely different story from finding the owner of lost property.

“T-this bastard. What level are you? Why is a low-level bastard pretending to know anything? If I say give it to me, you just have to give it to me.”

“You want to know what my level is? I’m busy so don’t speak nonsense.”

If it was the usual Leeha, he would not have such an intense reaction.

However, Leeha currently had the worst mood.

No matter how much gold he got or how much gunpowder he had, it couldn’t lighten his mood, because he saw the scene of his precious cousin getting decapitated.

“You, you, you! D-do you know what this is?”

Petal Kim raised his shield.

Leeha flinched for a moment, but he did not get attacked. There was no idiot in Middle Earth who would try to PK in the capital, aelstock.

Petal Kim pointed to the symbol engraved in his shield.

“Raging A-.”

“Are you stupid?”

Leeha did not hide his sour mood. What he saw was the shape of a Rising and Heavenly flag engraved in the middle of the shield.

“W-what? He does not know about ‘Rising Sun’? And you’re Korean too!”

“Are you kidding me, you bastard! Scram. If you bother me again, I’ll call the Sacred Knights.”

Leeha turned his back.

“Ha! Do you think you can threaten me, you low-level bastard? Are the Sacred Knights your friend? Do you think you’ve reached a high enough level just because you were able to wear the Brown Bear equipment? I’ll make you pay, you bastard.”

Leeha felt that he was not worth talking to.

And he shook his head. He felt that it was a waste of time to talk to someone like him.

‘I don’t have the time to waste talking to you, bye.’

Leeha ignored Petal Kim and walked towards Aelstock’s West Gate.

Was he friends with the Sacred Knights?

He was not friends with the Sacred Knights, but if it was Sir Syndergaard, he would listen to Leeha. It was not because he received the Sacred Knight’s respect, nor was it because they knew each other by name.

It was also not a private request, it was for the sake of the capital’s security against unruly users.

‘But, it’s a waste of time.’

He did not have a way to directly contact Sir Syndergaard.

In other words, he had to waste time dealing with Petal Kim, but Leeha did not have the time.

Above all, there was a simpler way to get away from someone who annoyed you…….

‘Okay then, let’s do some reconnaissance of Kobolds first.’

He already had information about Kobolds.

They were small monsters that lived in a village with a fairly high level of intelligence. With that said, the reason why there was a division of roles in their villages was because of their intelligence.

‘Fighting roles were classified as well, there were Warrior-Types, shaman-Types, and Archer-Types……

There were also those who mainly did surveillance and reconnaissance around the village, guard the entrance of the Kobold den, the chieftain’s escort, gatherers, etc. It was said that there was division by battle type and division of roles by rank or position in the village.

‘If I was a normal level 26 player, I don’t have much to think about. This quest would have unconditionally failed.’

He only had to hunt.

He had to find a safe place to level up until he reached level 29. However, Leeha’s combat power was already well above level 26.

Leeha was also aware of that fact.

Above all, currently, it was unlikely that his ability to snipe would increase with just one or two levels.

‘The, I have no choice but to look at the Kobolds and judge for myself. Would I choose a frontal breakthrough? Or do I have to “snipe”?’

He looked at the information about the monsters and their major skills, but then again, he can’t just look at it.

If he determined that sniping was possible, he would have to fight right away.

So, he had nothing to be afraid of, because he had prepared thoroughly.

“Wait! Where are you going, you cowardly bastard! Stop right there!”

Petal Kim shouted endlessly behind Leeha, who walked while organizing his thoughts. The fastest way to lose an annoying bastard.

Leeha glanced at Petal Kim for a moment and then, he started running.

Wooosh-!

He didn’t have any special skills, but Leeha’s running speed was fast. He was already in the center of Aelstock. His ability to pass through people while running was also outstanding.

“Wait! Hey! Hey! A low-level bastard running away from a tanker?”

Petal Kim ran after Leeha.

At first, he was able to chase for a while. Leeha’s speed was a bit faster but he expected him to get tired eventually.

“That, that bastard, haaa, hey!”

However, no matter how much they ran, he was not able to close the gap.

Rather, even though Petal Kim’s stamina had run out and he began to gasp for breath, Leeha was still running without any problems.

“Why does he- Haa, haa, haaa?”

He was not able to continue chasing after Leeha.

“Sta…… Haa, mina…… haa, how……”

In addition, it took a considerable amount of time for users to recover after depleting their stamina. Leeha was well aware of that fact.

Right now, Leeha did not have a low amount of stamina, but above all, he had a fraudulent skill called ‘Runner’s High’, which increased his running speed and let him continue running even when he depleted his stamina.

The skill he obtained through achievement when he was level 1 has only just now begun to shine.

“Revenge, I will… haa, have, haa, my… haa, re…… ha, venge-!!”

Petal Kim clasped his chest that was about to burst and shouted one last time. Of course, Leeha did not hear it.

After running for a while, Leeha looked back when he was about to reach the West Gate.

“Is he gone now?”

He got chased from the marketplace, but now, Petal Kim was nowhere to be seen.

Leeha smirked.

‘Sure enough. After my agility increased, my running speed also increased a lot. In that case, the remaining stats are……?’

Would it be better to put everything in agility?

The faster one moved, the easier it was to observe the other’s movement. If they were moving at the same speed, it would appear that the opponent had stopped.

“Character window.”

Name: Ha Leeha/ Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 26 (8%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 14

HP： 1640 / MP： 350 Stats: Strength: 40(+25)

Agility: 215(+105) Intelligence: 46(+31) Constitution: 74(+26), mind: 27(+17)

Remaining Stats: 32

‘There are 32 remaining stats.’

It seemed like additional intelligence was not needed to understand the weakness of humanoid monsters. Strength? He did not reach the weight limit when he carried the 9 equipment items dropped by users during the raid for the field boss Brown Bear, including the metal armor and swords that looked quite heavy.

‘In other words, it means I have enough strength.’

He didn’t need much MP because he only had a few skills. His stamina was similar to tankers of the same level, so it was sufficient. It meant that he could afford to invest all his stats into agility.

‘Normally, I have to invest in agility, so I wouldn’t have to be able to invest in other stats.’

However, because Leeha had enough points on other stats, he had the leeway to focus on agility to increase his attack power.

Stats: Strength: 40(+25)

Agility: 247(+105)

Intelligence: 46(+31)

Constitution: 74(+26)

Mind: 27(+17)

Remaining stat points: 0

‘247 agility……’

After putting all his available stats to agility, Leeha felt it was absurd. When one calculated their overall base stat points per level, minus 10 for the initial points given at level 1, his agility was equivalent to level 47.

But Leeha was only level 26 right now.

(To be continued…)
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‘Haha, good. Let’s power level. If I keep going at this pace……

At this pace? There’s still a huge gap with Agromni Igor. Leeha’s expression, which had been a bit better, paled.

‘Right, it was not the time to feel complacent. I have to finish the hunt as fast as possible.’

Leeha unfolded his map as he exited the West Gate.

His destination was an abandoned mine to the west of Aelstock. Mount Sheymoore is dominated by the Kobold Hijuit Tribe.

“Waa, that guy runs so fast. What?”

“Yeah. Is he wearing a new pair of shoes? Why was he so fast?”

“I don’t think he’s level 100 yet, is it okay to buy shoes like that? But it’s really really fast.”

“Isn’t he using a sprint skill?”

“Sprint is for short distances, so it can’t be that. Are athletes playing games?”

The users were looking at Leeha, who was running towards Mount Sheymoore, with disbelieving eyes.

“Huu, I need to buy a horse or something.”

Leeha let out a sigh as he entered the village. He ran for three hours without break, from the capital to the northwest of Aelstock.

If Leeha, who was not bound by stamina, ran for three hours, other users might take a day to arrive.

‘Of course, those guys who have money could buy a horse, no, they could at least ride a carriage.’

The cost of carriage could also not be ignored.

In Leeha’s perspective, Middle Earth, no, Goople was harassing its users in various ways in order to prevent them from raising money.


‘The reason Middle Earth is so valuable is that they make users spend money endlessly.’

Even more, using the warp gate was unheard of.

“There are quite a lot of people.”

The first time one starts to hunt Kobolds was at level 30.

“I’m going to the base of Sheymoore! Level 31 Tanker! Invite me!”

“Mountain Wurm Party〜 for Level 35.”

“Looking for a good damage dealer to hunt Kobold warriors with, 1 slot left!”

Sheymoore Mountain was a mountain boasting a huge area with rugged terrain and was considered as ‘the mountain behind the town’.

‘If you divide it into parts, you can separate it into three areas: the base, the middle, and the top. Additionally, besides the kobolds, there are also mountain worms.’

A giant earthworm that hid underground while waiting to ambush its victims.

Leeha thought that it would be great if earthworms were turned into monsters in Middle Earth, but almost fainted when he saw the pictures in the community.

‘I thought it would be small because it is an earthworm……., I have never been more wrong. If I had to compare it, wouldn’t it be the size of a power pole?

Of course, since it was buried underground, its whole length was not shown but Leeha could smell the stench in Middle Earth all over it.

‘It is thick and creates an overwhelming atmosphere…’

It’s not a snake, but a worm with round teeth that has grown to the size of a power pole. Leeha stuck his tongue out and headed to the middle of the village.

Those who hunt on the base are between level 30 and 35.

Above all, he was relieved that he didn’t have to fight the Mountain Worm.

Those who hunt in the middle are level 35 to 40. In addition to having to deal with kobolds that have some combat ability, mountain worms also began to appear.

It was said that a mountain worm was as difficult to deal with as a three-man kobold scout party.

Lasty, the top of the iron mine.


Of course, he didn’t need to fight on the way to the peak, but the top of the mountain is usually called this.

There was an entrance to the iron mine formerly operated by the Fibiel Kingdom, it is where monsters like the Kobold Guard start to appear.

The appropriate party level is 40 or higher for a three-man party.

For a four-man party, it’s possible at level 37 to 38.

‘In the iron mine, there are storage and incubation facilities for the Hijuit tribe. They also have strict security.’

Fortunately, the village is not in the mines. If it was in the mine, Leeha would not have dared to attack.

“Hijuit Village Entrance Party! Here, dealer-nim! Would you like to go hunting with us? We also have a pretty healer!”

“Hmm?”

Leeha heard a cry as unfolded his map and examined the area of Sheymoore Mountain. One-shot? When he raised his head.

“Are you talking to me?”

“Yes!”

‘Ara-ra, as soon as I got here……?’ Leeha recalled what the man said. They were going to the entrance of the Hijuit Village? Eventually, to the entrance of the iron mine.

This meant that they would climb halfway through the summit.

He came here to scout the kobold village anyway, so it would be better if he could approach the village entrance.

“You’re a dealer right?”

“Ah, yes. That’s right…

He was a very tall man, presumably a tanker.

“Also! Is that a gun you’re carrying on your back?”

“Ahh…. Yes. I use a gun. I’m a musketeer.”

“Hmm, it’s my first time seeing such a job. I am excited.”


Everytime that tank nodded, his helmet rattled.

“Yes? It’s a rare job.”

When you looked at it like that, it could be seen that the equipment of the Agonia Oso was quite beneficial.

“What level are you? We are a party of three. Are you at a level that would go all the way to the top?”

Since it was a three-man party, it meant that they would not accept low-levels.

If Leeha had not done research on the kobolds in advance, he might have vaguely said 30 or 35.

‘But if it is a three-man party, going to the entrance of the Hijuit Village…… what would be the appropriate level?

Leeha answered.

“I am level 41.”… Without changing his expression…

He was level 26, but if one looked at his stats, he wasn’t lying.

The tall tanker looked at Leeha’s equipment in the meantime.

A coat, boots and cap made from Agonia Oso’s leather.

Leeha exuded the presence of a level 40 user, not only with his stats, but also with his appearance. No, at this level, it would have been believable even if he said he was level 50.

“41? That’s perfect! Hmmm. If I was wrong, I would have just logged out. I guess I have no choice but to go hunting. Haha.”

“Ah, yes.”

Somehow, a bit of an annoyed tone was buried…

‘If it’s a bother, you can just not hunt.’ Leeha had an uneasy feeling.

“Sorry. It’s just a joke. Haha.”

“What?”

Where’s the joke? Leeha did not understand. He had a feeling that their personalities did not match each other.

‘Hmm…. It doesn’t seem like he’s being polite though.’

What was more unsettling was, he looked unreliable from the start.

“Who else is in the party?”

“Ah, we have a healer! You know, the pretty healer I mentioned? Hmm, you didn’t join because of the woman, did you?”

“W-what are you talking about?”

“Sorry. It’s just a joke. But our healer really is pretty.”

Gulp, Leeha barely swallowed saliva. He also felt a little bit guilty. In fact, he was truly a little drawn to the word pretty.

“Ah, here she is. Hana-chan! I found a dealer!”

Leeha was dazed and was not able to laugh.

“Yeah, yeah! Oh, this one? Hello! Nice to meet you. I am Mame Hana.”

She was really pretty.

Bright eyes and white skin. Forehead, eyes, and tip of the nose.

Half of her face was covered by a veil, which added to her air of mystery.

“You know you’re looking too hard, don’t you? After all, I’m not that pretty.”

“Oh, ah. Was I?”

“Hehehe, don’t say that, ma-chan. I will get embarrassed.”

Mame Hana smiled shyly.

When she smiled, she gently lowered her head. It was as beautiful as a flower.

“Hmm, as expected… It’s difficult. What’s your name? Let’s party quickly and move on. If we stay here for too long, some strange people may appear.”

The tall tanker asked for Leeha’s name, and moved along with Mame Hana . Leeha quickly gave his name.

“Ah, yes, my name is Ha Leeha.”

“Ha Leeha! That’s a strange nickname. I am Matsushige, a level 42 Knight.”

“I’m a level 40 Unni, mame Hana. Nice to meet you. Ha Leeha-nim.”

The party invitation window appeared in front of Leeha.

He knew without even asking. He thought they had an oriental appearance, but when he heard their names, it became clear.

‘They are Japanese.’

Leeha made a party with a Japanese tanker and healer.

He was assured as the level did not appear in the party window. The shared experience would be enough even with the gap with a level 42 knight and level 40 sister.

“Please take care of me. Level 41, musketeer, Ha Leeha.”

“Shall we go then? I will take the lead.”

Matsushige lowered his tone.

Shudder.

With his face covered, he became more knight-like.

‘Sasak’… Matsushige motioned towards Leeha and Mame Hana. It was a sign to stop.

“There are a lot of worker kobolds all over the place. We will turn around.”

“We’re not going to catch them?”

“Hmm……. You’ll see a lot of them in the future, we don’t need to hunt them right now. We need to save our strength and avoid the kobolds so that we can stay in good shape until we get to the village.”

Matsushige answered Leeha’s question.

His face was covered by the helmet, but it seemed like he was smiling a little.

From Leeha’s point of view, it was the first kobold he had seen, but from the perspective of Matsushige and Mame Hana, it was just a low-leveled monster that didn’t give much experience.

Worker Kobolds were the ones who came down from the village to the base of the mountain to gather resources.

They usually work in pairs of two, and even if they are fighting something for a long time, if they notice that they are at a disadvantage, they would run away……. Parties going to the top or middle of the mountain usually ignore them.

Letting them run away would only waste HP with no experience point, while chasing them was a waste of time.

‘But I haven’t tried it yet.’

What is the kobold’s health, and how much attack damage does Leeha have now.

Leeha said that he was level 42, but in reality, Leeha did not experience anything personally yet. He didn’t want to miss this opportunity.

Even if one makes a mistake, shouldn’t one try when one had party members who could protect them?

“Matsushige-nim, could you please wait a minute.”

Leeha stopped the tanker and healer.

“Yes?”

“You said you didn’t know what kind of job a musketeer is yet?”

“Yes! That’s right, I haven’t seen one before.”

“How about you Mame Hana-nim?”

“No, I haven’t…”

The two Japanese shook their heads at Leeha’s question.

As expected, it was said that it was difficult to meet before level 40. Leeha nodded his head in agreement.

It was okay though. Because he could use this excuse to test it.

“Let’s go see it now.”

“Yes? You want to attack that kobold?”

“Yes. Shouldn’t we have a feel of each other’s abilities? I am completely different from archers.”

“Hmm, well. Let’s do that then.”

Matsushige nodded.

Leeha’s suggestion made sense.

It was obvious, but it was better to prevent endangering the party by knowing your party member’s abilities.

In that respect, what Leeha suggested was quite reasonable. It would be better to test it with a weak monster in advance.

‘Okay, it’s done.’

This would ensure safety even if one shot doesn’t work or two kobolds attacked at the same time. Leeha started reloading.

(To be continued…)
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“By the way, what’s your range?”

When Leeha opened the gunpowder bag and inserted the iron bullet, matsushige, who was watching from the side, suddenly asked.

“Yes? Oh, I…Since I’ve only played solo, I didn’t think of such things. What was it again?”

…

‘About 50m.”

They were not familiar with muskets anyway.

There was no need to say that the default range is 40m. Of course, there was no reason to say that he could hit at 100m either.

The distance with the most stable accuracy for Leeha was 50m.

“It’s shorter than I thought. It takes a long time to reload, so I thought the range would be longer.”

“Ma-chan! Don’t be rude.”

“Ah, I’m sorry if I made you feel bad.”

As soon as he heard Mame Hana’s words, matsushige lowered his head. He was so polite that it seemed to be fake.

“No, it’s okay. Even I think that it’s short. Haha.”

Leeha laughed bitterly.

He himself thought that 50m was okay.

They would have been surprised if they knew that the range of a musket is 40 meters when the combat assistance system is turned on.

No, even before that. The reload was long? Leeha’s reload speed was 49 seconds. He was proud of himself for being fast.

They would be very surprised if they knew that it takes one minute to reload with the combat assistance system turned on.


‘This is why there are no musketeers…’

Phew, he sighed and walked over to Matsushige’s side.

“For now, one shot. If you attack, one more kobold will come out.”

“I understand. I trust Matsushige-nim.”

“Don’t worry about aggro.”

Matsushige lifted his helmet and winked.

As soon as Leeha saw his face, he got a little worried, but when Matsushige lowered his helmet, he looked reliable again.

‘I shouldn’t be prejudiced based on looks. Haha, I need to focus, focus. This is my first kobold hunt.’

Leeha went into a kneeling position and removed his distracting thoughts.

They were 40m away from the kobold and were hidden behind a bush. Because they were close, he could see the appearance of the kobold.

‘The body of a child. About the size of a 6-7-year-old child. With a very large head. It looks like something is out of proportion.’

If they were small, were their brains developed? Looking at a child’s body with an adult’s head felt bizarre.

Whether it was plucking herbs or digging mushrooms, the guy’s nails looked quite sharp.

‘Huuu… Leeha breathed. He aimed at the kobold. Leeha’s fingers moved smoothly.’

Taaang—!

It hit precisely. Leeha straightened his musket and started to reload.

“Kyaak”

“Waah, it’s so loud!”

The two Japanese hurriedly plugged their ears as the sound of gunshot resounded on the base of Sheymoore Mountain.

“Ah, I forgot to tell you… It’s a little loud.”


Leeha laughed and trembled softly.

“That’s a lot of smoke too! Kobol-… Huh?”

“How did it go, ma-chan?”

Mame Hana was stunned and her eyes widened behind Matsushige.

Soon, two worker kobolds would come rushing in, and although they were lower-leveled, they would need to start hunting right away.

However, neither Matsushige nor Leeha moved.

“Ha Leeha-nim? Ma-chan?”

What was going on? If the tanker, matsushige, did not settle down, he may lose aggro.

“What are you doing?”

Mame Hana, who quickly pulled out her rosary, tilted her head, but neither of them made a move.

Matsushige was the first to speak.

“Ha-Hana-chan. Have you seen anything like this?”

“What?”

“Come here.”

Matsushige raised his helmet’s face covering again, revealed his bare face, and pointed at the kobold.

“Hehehe?”

It was the first time Mame Hana had ever seen something like this.

The worker kobold who was gathering had his head blown off and died, and his body was already turning gray.

Did it die in one shot?

Even though it was the lowest level monster in Sheymoore Mountain, the worker kobold was level 30.


A party of 3 or 4 level 30 users was needed to hunt a kobold worker.

‘That… in one shot…?’

It was absurd for Mame Hana, but she did not release her tension.

Worker kobolds come in pairs of two.

In other words, there was still one left. And another kobold had teamed up with the dead worker kobold.

“Ka- Strong human! Ka- Run away!”

Throwing away its crude basket, it ran away with its tail falling out.

“Hahahaha? What was that? How? What happened?”

“The other one even ran away. However, before running away, a worker kobold considers the number of enemies first…. It’s the first time I have seen something like this.”

Mame Hana as well as Matsushige couldn’t help but be surprised.

They have seen kobold workers run away. But that was normal for a 4 to 5-man party.

After a 5-man party kills a kobold worker, the remaining kobold worker would run away while shouting ‘Ka- four too many!’ or ‘Ka- can’t beat five!’.

At least it ran away during the fight.

But what of the reaction of the kobold now?

‘It escaped before fighting…? No, did it run without counting the number of people?’

They were in a situation they have never heard of.

“Hmmm… Ha Leeha-nim, are you really level 41?”

“W-what do you mean?”

Matsushige suddenly asked a question. Matsushige’s eyes, which looked like a balloon doll’s, suddenly changed and became terrifying.

“Perhaps… Isn’t your level higher? Level 70? 80? Or 100?”

“Hmm?”

Leeha felt ridiculous. It was nice that he did not get caught for being low-level, but this time, they had a different suspicion.

“Phew… No, ma-chan. Since our experience rose, Ha Leeha-nim should be level 60! If our experience points rose, it means that he is level 62 at most.”

“Ahh. You can only share up to a 20 level gap, right? Sorry.”

There’s no way to fake it.

“It’s okay. And I’m on the same level as you guys, so you don’t have to overdo it, and let’s try to climb up carefully.”

Leeha was happy to be suspected as a high-level, but at the same time, he began to worry if he could follow this sloppy tanker and party leader.

“There’s another party over there. There are four of them. Let’s go over there”

Matsushige picked a direction without hesitation and went up.

“Won’t we get in the way of that party?”

“They are already hunting kobold workers, so there won’t be any workers nearby. Kobolds are very clever, they even set their own work area.”

Matsushige answered Leeha’s question.

It was definitely knowledge of someone who has been hunting a lot of kobolds.

‘I think he’s pretty reliable when you look at it like this.’

He was showing loopholes in strange places, therefore, it was hard to decide whether to believe them or not.

‘The same goes for the woman Mame Hana. Something’s off.’

Her first impression gave me a sense of solitude.

She felt mysterious because she was dressed in clothes that could be seen in cathedrals, and a cotton cloth was even draped on her face.

‘Her reaction to seeing a kobold is… she was a Japanese woman without a doubt. I thought it was only in anime. That was also the case in reality. She’s definitely pretty and cute, and her nose isn’t a joke either. Women don’t seem to like this kind of woman very much.’

Heeee?

Leeha’s reaction was quite strange.

It was not an exaggeration to say that he only served in the military after becoming an adult, so it was inevitable that he had strange feelings about foreign cultures.

‘All I did was interact with West Point once… after playing Middle Earth, I got to know people from Vietnam, hong Kong, and Japan… all sorts of people. Haha, it’s thanks to Middle Earth. And the one who brought me to Middle Earth was Kijung.

When he thought of Kijung, Leeha’s resolve hardened once more.

As well as the flames of revenge towards Agromni Igor.

“Ground! It went to the ground! Hana-chan, be careful! Ha Leeha-nim, be careful too! It might suddenly pop out!”

Grrrrrr—.

When the monster’s head dug out of the ground, dirt and gravel bounced off.

“Damn it-!”

Dirt went into Leeha’s eyes. Besides, his distance from the monster that came out was too close.

Hwik, Leeha turned his gun to the ground and pulled the trigger, however, there was no response.

He started to feel vibrations from the ground.

“Kya, Kyaak!”

“Don’t panic, gather around! Hana-chan, come here! Ha Leeha-nim, please come too!”

Matsushige stopped and called for Mamen Hana and Leeha. When, where, and how will it come out?

As soon as one reached the foothills of Sheymoore Mountain, the first thing one had to deal with were the Mountain Worms.

‘Damn it, I can see why people hate mountain worms.’

The pressure was different from the pictures.

Mountain worms glisten with slime from their gigantic, earth-colored bodies. The monster that suddenly dug out of the ground was about 190cm in size!

Of course, it was not its full length. In order to support the part that protruded out of the ground, that much length must be embedded in the ground.

‘In other words, the overwhelming fear that comes from the huge size of more than about 4m in length and 1m in width is excellent, but above all else, it is fatal to Leeha.

If it was underground, one could tell its location based on the vibration and rumbling of the ground. If it suddenly jumped out of the deep underground as it did just before, it would have no choice but to get stuck.

‘I might have died without Matsushige.’

Leeha was glad he did not come alone. He thought he could avoid it if he knew…

With its speed, it may have been difficult to get away from it.

“What should we do?”

“Vibration. If you feel the vibration, run in front of it.”

Matsushige was also very tense.

“In front?”

“Yes. The mountain worm’s attack pattern is-.”

Kuuuu——

In an instant, they felt a vibration.

They felt trembling under their feet. When the ground, which should have been firmly supported, shook, land creatures would not be able to help but feel anxious.

Run!!!

“Kyaaaaa!”

Grrrr—!

Paaaat, a giant earthworm jumped out of the three people’s feet. It had a great amount of power that could plow dirt or gravel generously.

Even if it had been a little late to leap forward, I would have been sucked into that gigantic jaw.

“Slash!”

Matsushige ran and swung his sword toward the mountain worm. His appearance, while he held a shield and sword, was of a typical knight.

‘Wasn’t that quite good? Anyway, this might be the silver lining for level 42.’

It had a stable tanking ability, even in the midst of chaos.

“Protection!”

Meanwhile, mame Hana finished casting.

Hwaaak-!

A bright green color embraced Matsushige. As the sister’s secondary magic was added, matsushige became even more dignified.

‘The same goes for Mame Hana. That’s a level 40 dream.’

Leeha was taken aback by the surprise attack, he couldn’t help it. No matter how many times one goes through it, the ambush itself was what surprises people.

However, each person’s ability is revealed in what kind of response they take after that. Leeha carefully observed how the two matched.

It was a skill he could trust. If so, it was his turn to show off his skills.

(To be continued…)
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“Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Reload complete, please get out of the way!”

Grrrr—!

Claang, a huge spark spewed out from Matsushige’s shield that blocked the mountain worm’s jaw.

And while the earthworm tilted its head for a moment, matsushige stepped aside.

‘Hold.’

He quickly raised the musket.

Leeha looked at the mountain worm. In its circular mouth, its teeth spun endlessly.

‘It looks like a document shredder! It should be good at shredding security documents in bulk.’

Baaang…!

Chwaaak, thick juice poured out of the body of the mountain worm.

“Phew, it’s big, so what.”

“Don’t let your guard down! Hana-chan, get back!”

“Kill it quickly, ma-chan!”

“Ara?”

Isn’t it dead? At Matsushige’s sudden shout, Leeha was startled and raised his musket.

Surely, didn’t they see the trajectory of the bullet going through the cog-like jaw and pierce through its back?

‘Ah……’


Earthworm!

Leeha quickly opened his bag and took another bag of gunpowder.

Right, it was an earthworm. Not a four-legged animal, not a humanoid monster, but an earthworm.

And what about earthworms? If you step on it, it will wriggle.

Even if its head was pierced or severed, its body would still move.

Grrt- grrt- grrt- grrt-

“Huh? Huh?”

And Leeha saw the mountain worm approaching him rapidly. Matsushige was on the right, but wasn’t Leeha the one on the left?

It meant that the mountain worms aggro, which was aimed at Matsushige, was transferred to Leeha.

“Kuwaaaa!”

If so, there was no time to think.

Leeha ran towards Matsushige.

The mountain worm’s toothed jaw had already come close.

“Damn! Matsushige-nim, aggro, hurry!”

Leeha exclaimed loudly.

“Ha Leeha-nim, come this way!”

The mountain worm’s teeth sounded like a grinder, eerily from behind.

At that moment, matsushige jumped in.

“Slash!”

The mountain worm’s attack changed and it crashed on the shield with a ‘Claang’ sound. Had it been a little late, Leeha’s body would have been ripped apart.


“Hurry up. I dragged back its aggro. I’ll be careful in the future. I’m sorry!”

Even though the mountain worm’s head was pierced, it did not stop.

‘Haa, I was a little nervous too.’

Because of that brief aggro mismanagement, Leeha almost died.

‘Surely… it wasn’t on purpose, was it?’

He made some big mistakes once in a while, so Leeha had no choice but to think like that. In action, one mistake could take one’s life.

And for Leeha, death would cause the failure of his quest. The quest with unusual conditions would disappear into the air.

‘No, I should focus on hunting first. I have to be cautious of all the earthworms.’

One must not doubt ones’ comrades while hunting. But it will be different in the future.

Leeha first focused on the mountain worm.

‘His first death in Middle Earth should not be caused by jeering.’

He quickly finished reloading. He wanted to feed it bullets in anger, but the earthworm was moving too fast.

‘Damn, aren’t you moving too much now?’

Leeha tried to predict the pattern of the mountain worm attacking Matsushige, but it was not easy. The monster wriggled and struggled ceaselessly.

However, if Leeha hit its body, it would not deal much damage.

If he shot it in the head, he might have hit Matsushige. It was as if all the possible angles to shoot were blocked.

‘If so…’ Leeha lowered his musket and changed direction altogether.

“Ha-Ha Leeha-nim? Where are you going!”

“Phew, huhu. Mame Hana-nim. If something goes wrong, please heal me.”

“Is something wrong? What are you going to do?”


Leeha sat behind Matsushige.

“Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Matsushige-nim. One, two, three, get out of the way.”

“Yes? Pardon?”

“Get your timing right. I don’t want to kill you.”

“Yes? What-.”

“One.”

Claaang-!

Meanwhile, the mountain worm gnawed at the shield.

“Two. You have to keep yourself safe.”

“Wait! There is also the timing of the mountain worm, so suddenly-.”

“Three.”

“Uwaaak!”

Matsushige jumped away.

The mountain worm that lost its target, could not be stopped. The sawtooth teeth naturally fell down.

Its target naturally fell to Leeha who was hiding behind Matsushige.

Krrrrrr—!

Its teeth rotated with a strong force. If one gets sucked in its mouth, it was so threatening that its target would die instantly.

It took a while for the terrible idea to float on Leeha’s head.

Leeha pulled the trigger.

Taaang—!

“Kkuwaak”

Ah, so that was how it worked? He shot and killed the earthworm that was approaching him. Will the earthworm fall down in a different direction?

Of course not. The huge body of the mountain worm fell toward Leeha as it was.

Kuung, the earthworm superimposed with Leeha’s body.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Are you okay?”

“I will cast heal right away, please get out of there!”

“Ahhh, ahhh.”

“Huh? What?”

Mame Hana lowered her hand that held the rosary.

“Phew, it’s okay! You have to save mana.

Leeha quickly pushed the giant earthworm that fell on him, away.

The slippery feeling in his hands was not pleasant.

“This… Did you catch it?”

Mame Hana looked at Leeha with a surprised look on her face.

“Don’t you think it’s dead? It’s not wriggling anymore.”

“Heol… Hunting a mountain worm in two shots?”

Matsushige also raised his face cover and looked at Leeha and the mountain worm alternately.

Although he had given it a few slashes, there was no way his slashes dealt huge damage.

The mountain worm’s slick, and slimy surface was used to prevent swords from penetrating its body.

Leeha only shrugged his shoulders.

“Ah, before that. Shall we talk about your skills for a moment?”

Then he suddenly remembered. He just couldn’t get past the mountain worm’s aggro management.

“Yes?”

Matsushige had an expression that something was coming.

It was not an exaggeration to say that aggro management was the most important factor in party hunting.

If a tanker did not draw aggro and focus the monster’s attack on them, other party members with relatively low HP could get annihilated in an instant.

Even if a dealer missed their attack, as long as there was a healer and tanker, they could have another chance, that was not the case for tankers.

One mistake could lead to the annihilation of a party.

“Matsushige-nim, did you say your job was a knight?”

“Yes, yes. I am a knight.”

“That is a tanker job, right?”

“Y-yes. That’s right.”

“Then, why did the aggro transfer? No, you didn’t use a skill a while ago.”

It was the part that made Leeha suspicious.

Leeha’s attack power was so strong that it could transfer aggro. Monsters are also living things, so it was natural that they deal with the most threatening target first.

But it was the tanker that kept monsters from acting like that.

They use taunting skills such as stomp in order to draw their attention.

It was unavoidable to have doubts when a tanker in his 40s suddenly mismanaged aggro like that.

“T-that……”

“Were you trying to kill me?”

“No, no! Absolutely not!” Seeing Leeha’s bitter eyes, matsushige waved his hand. Leeha wouldn’t have such an extreme reaction if it was the usual, but he had been through too many things lately.

He tended to look at bad people as good. In the forest of spiders and bats, the people who bet whether he lived or died, Petal Kim shouting for items…

“In Middle Earth, high-end equipment is especially expensive, so there is no special skill for managing aggro.”

“Then?”

“Like the slash you just saw. It could be said, that it is a concept with a lot of aggro indexes attached to attack skills. Attack itself is aggro management, but as you know, attack skills have a high cooldown…

Matsushige bowed his head. Of course, he was tall, so even if he lowered his head, he was a lot taller than Leeha.

“Okay?”

“Yes, really. Why would I lie to Leeha-nim.”

“Right, Ha Leeha-nim. I know because I’m always with Ma-chan, and he’s not that kind of guy.”

“Hana-chan…”

Mame Hana stuck next to the depressed Matsushige.

Maybe they’ve been hunting together all along. They even called each other by nicknames, so there was no need to listen to Mame Hana.

Of course, she will take Matsushige’s side.

Leeha looked at the two of them alternatingly.

He could see no lie. It might really be because of a lack of skills.

‘Even if they have the same level and job, the skill composition might be different. Depending on how you leveled up, there would be skills that one has and hasn’t learned. I know that.’

Therefore, it means that it is difficult to tell what skills others have. If one compares oneself to others, they might look down on themselves, or they might find their own weakness depending on what kind of skills they have.

There was no one in the world who revealed their own information openly.

“Hmm…”

Leeha deliberately took his time.

It certainly made sense, but right now, ah, that was right. He couldn’t say sorry for the misunderstanding. After a few moments of waiting with tense expressions on their faces, mame Hana and Matsushige finally spoke up.

“Ha Leeha-nim, please forgive Ma-chan!”

“Ah, until he says sor-.”

“I’m sorry, Ha Leeha-nim”

Matsushige bowed his head. Right, it was done. Leeha closed his mouth and nodded.

“Yes, yes I know. If that is how your skill works, then there’s nothing I can do. Instead, let us be clear. How many skills do you have that could get aggro?”

“One…”

“Only the ‘slash’?”

Matsushige nodded. Also, the cooldown was over 1 minute. It was longer than Leeha’s reload.

“Then what other skills do you have?”

“That… Aside from the shield skill, things that mostly protect….”

“Protect?”

“Chivalry. It is a knight skill. Instead of the target, my HP will be reduced instead.”

What-ly? Shibalry?

“Yes? Ah, knights too. That’s tanking. But why didn’t you use it on me?”

“Ha Leeha-nim is a man.”

Hmm?

Leeha’s expression hardened. What is he saying now?

“N-no. Do not misunderstand. As the name ‘Chivalry’ suggests … it’s a skill that could only be used on women. I’m sorry.”

“Ah……My… Neck.”

Leeha swallowed a sigh.

(To be continued…)
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Another testament to useless realism in games. If so, it was obvious that Matsushige was the one who wrote the chivalry.

“Mame Hana-nim?”

“Yes. I always hunt together with Hana-chan. I am her knight. My life will always be her-.”

“Ma-chaaaan!”

What was this all of a sudden? Leeha felt the absurdity of what they were doing. He said that it was chivalry, so it could only be used on ladies? If they wanted it to be realistic, they should have done it right! Mame Hana was a sister! If you turn to religion, she was not a lady (noble)! Leeha shook his head. No, what was he thinking right now?

‘Anyway, I don’t think it was on purpose… that’s just great. They should have brought it up when they took the lead.’

Leeha sighed and finally started talking about the thing he wanted to say.

“Phew, I see. I won’t ask for anything else, but make sure you manage your slash aggro. Depending on the situation, I will also slow down the attack tempo a bit.”

“Yep. I don’t know what to do with Ha Leeha-nim needing to pay attention to aggro. I’m sorry.”

Dealer’s initiative.

The leader of the party was still Matsushige, however, he had revealed the composition of his skills and the one with the right to command was now Leeha.

It was necessary for Leeha right now.

Whether they knew or not that the initiative had been passed to Leeha, matsushige just bowed his head with joy that he was forgiven.

“No. Let’s start again. I hope we get along well.”

“Yes, Ha Leeha-nim. I will work hard to manage aggro.”

Leeha didn’t just bring it up to talk about aggro.

‘The timing of reloading is quite noticeable…’

‘No matter how fast I reload, it still takes 50 seconds. There’s a skill that reduces it to 30 seconds, but it has a long cooldown and cannot be used at any time, so I should save it. For urgent battle situations, one step at a time.’


Leeha continued to feel Mame Hana and Matsushige’s eyes looking at him secretly.

Why are they looking? What was it?

Of course, Leeha did not bring it up, the quick-witted Leeha knew that one day, they would have no choice but to fight for leadership when hunting.

And with aggro and tanking as an excuse, Leeha completely took the initiative.

‘It would be much easier to hunt.’

Leeha followed Matsushige and smiled.

“Did we pass the middle of the mountain now?”

“Yes, you can’t see any of the scouts we saw in the base of the mountain, can you?? Now we are at the top. The guards will start to come out, so we have to be careful.”

Matsushige whispered.

Even near a mountain worm, a scout team consisting of two kobold scouts and one warrior could be seen, however, at some point, they could no longer be seen.

‘Now there will be guards.’

A group of 3 monsters composed of 2 kobold warriors and 1 kobold archer or kobold shaman.

They still have crude pieces of equipment, but compared to the kobolds before, they were definitely holding swords and shields.

‘In other words, there are two tankers and one dealer. It’s funny because it’s going to be a 3v3 fight against kobolds.’

If this was how this works in the kobold region, one can imagine what would happen in the future. This made Leeha think that solo play was almost impossible in the first place.

“Wait until they pass.”

Leeha, matsushige, and Mame Hana waited patiently. The moment the kobolds finished patrolling, Leeha’s party started to run.

“Run! Run!”

If they went near the village entrance and dragged one or two kobold guards at a time, they would get a better experience, and their hunting efficiency would also be better.

Fortunately, the kobold guards did not find Leeha’s party.


After that, they passed through the guard’s patrol areas several times, but thanks to other parties hunting around, Leeha’s party passed safely.

It took about 1 hour and 40 minutes of climbing to finally arrive.

“Let’s see.”

There were more than a hundred small huts that even small children could live in.

‘It is definitely huge. Isn’t it too much?’

The barriers surrounding the village were also widely spread out, which seemed to speak of the size of the Hijuit Kobold tribe of Sheymoore Mountain.

‘In other words, the greater the number of troops, the greater the confusion once the commander disappears.’

Roughly speaking, Leeha realized why this mission was important.

If the chieftain dies, it will take some time for the commander to be restored with the news of his sudden death.

In the meantime!

That being said, the chieftain will respawn separately from the progress of the story. And there was a high possibility that ‘something’ won’t happen either.

“Haha, indeed… this is for snipers… So, that cave inside is an old mine, isn’t it?”

“Yes. It has the strongest defense because it is a warehouse and nursing facility for kobolds. In fact, you won’t be able to break through it unless you have a raid team.”

Matsushige, who lifted his helmet, was very wary that they might be found.

Leeha also observed the kobold village with only his eyes sticking out of the bushes.

‘It’s nice to be able to look downwards because of our high vantage point…’

But it’s hard to see inside. It was advantageous for hunting, but it was not a place where Leeha could do his quest.

‘It would be nice if only we could go to the place where we could see the center of the town.’

Although he looked at the screenshots, he did not see any sniping positions in person.

Based on Leeha’s judgment, there were two areas where the chieftain of the Hijuit Tribe could live.


In the heart of the town, or in front of the entrance of the iron mine.

However, both of them were nowhere to be seen from where they were hiding now.

‘I have to move after all…’

Judging by seeing it in person, he thought that sniping would be more difficult.

However, Leeha did not give up.

It was definitely hard to find a sniping location right now. However, Browless clearly used the word ‘snipe’, and for that reason, he gave this quest.

‘The hidden quest was nothing more than 『Browless’ expectations』.’

Of course, it would be difficult. However, being difficult and having no way is completely different.

“Now then, shall we start hunting?”

At Leeha’s words, matsushige and Mame Hana nodded.

They were 80 meters away from the village. Leeha slowly crawled forward.

‘Kung, it’s quite difficult to cross the 50-meter range.’

Even without the sense of distance, one could still feel the difference between 50m and 80m. Even civilians could feel it. In the end, one can’t just shoot from where they are hiding.

Leeha moved carefully.

He had to move carefully through the bushes to shoot the kobolds and then go back to Matsushige and Mame Hana.

In other words, Leeha was in charge of pulling the monsters.

However, he had no intention of going to the 50-meter point.

The difference between 50m and 80m was easy to notice, even for Mame Hana and Matsushige, but if it’s the difference between 50m and 65m, it would be hard to notice.

‘There is no need to go further and take a risk.’

The distance was approximately 62m – 63m.

“Kobold guard… Let’s test it first.”

Leeha, who arrived at the target point while crawling, aimed at the kobold guard.

According to the data, he collected so far, his accuracy at that distance was 75%. Compared to the 50% accuracy rate at 40m when the combat assistance system is turned on, it was incomparably high, however, it was not satisfactory for Leeha.

‘Calm Mind.’

『Beginner’s Calm Mind(Lv.3)』 Description: The more you aim at a moving target, the calmer you need to be. When he calmed down, his hands stopped shaking. Effect: Accuracy increases by 17% for 3 seconds Mana: 50 Cooldown: 30 minutes

The skill that only increased accuracy by 15% at level 1 has risen to 17%, but he had no time to be happy.

As soon as he used the skill, his armpits tightened. His elbow and forearm supported the musket without shaking. In an instant, he had 92% accuracy, but there was no time to lose.

Taaang—!

The musket spewed a lot of white smoke.

The entrance to the Hijuit Kobold village on Sheymoore Mountain.

The role of the guard guarding the entrance was a position that could only be obtained by those who were large and strong even in the Hijuit Kobold Tribe.

In addition, it was a job that had a good working environment because one did not have to go out of town.

Besides, he was a 132cm tall guard that competed for first or second place in the Hijuit Tribe.

It was not an exaggeration to say that he was the number one son-in-law.

Kui——-!

“Kuwaat-!”

Startled by the sudden sound he twisted his spear, but he suddenly felt the strength getting drained from its hand.

“Kuwat-! Ka- my leg hurts.”

The pain was enough to even miss that he dropped his spear.

He knew how shameful it was to drop ones’ spear, but it was so painful that he couldn’t think about it.

And the guard knew who did it.

“Human-! There’s a human!”

The guard immediately looked up to find its enemy.

He found traces of a human 65m away. Smoke clouds rose into the air. A man lying down caught its eyes.

However, his legs did not move properly.

“Kaat, leg- Kaa. Kaa-!”

A kobold guard himself, he had many times more muscle than weaker kobold workers. He was born a hero, and he had not experienced pain, so he did not know this kind of situation.

“Human, kill!”

He barely managed to grab an object in the shape of a spear and skewer and started moving his feet.

Limp, limp.

However, the thing that pierced his thigh did more damage than he thought.

“Kuwat-! Guard, help, kill humans!”

“Ka- Ka-! Catch human!”

Normally, he would go alone, but in this case, he had no choice. The guard summoned a colleague that was working with him and went towards the human together.

Taaang—-!

“Kaat!”

Hearing the sound, the guard felt a burning sensation in his wound, but that was all. There was no additional pain.

“Ka?”

“Kaat, ka……. Ka-.”

And he noticed. The colleague he called over also had a hole in his thigh.

“Kat, human, kill, Kat”

“Ka- ka-!”

The two kobolds limped and pulled their sore legs towards the human, but they could not narrow the distance so easily.

(To be continued…)
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‘Hmm, basically, two guards act together.’

Did it mean that he pulled out the guys patrolling around the barrier? It would have been easier to hunt one by one.

Leeha scratched his head, but he didn’t think it was a big threat. Besides, he did the same test twice and he got the same result, so he did not have regrets anyway.

‘I’m sure they’re humanoid monsters, so the thigh is also an area that does a lot of damage, isn’t it? Anyway, I also confirmed that if I hit their leg, their speed slows down.’

He was skeptical at first, and he had no way to confirm the relationship between damage to the leg and movement speed.

Seeing Highlander Tale’s slow movement in the video of the Tiwi Canyon, he somewhat expected it, but he still needed solid data.

‘Well then.’

Looking at the two kobold guards that were dragging one of their legs and bleeding, Leeha quickly turned back and ran.

“Two guards, each shot in the thigh. Be prepared for aggro.”

After Leeha returned, he called out to Matsushige and reloaded at the same time. In fact, Leeha’s two party members were making silly faces.

“Yes. By the way… That was really great. Did you see, hana-chan?”

“Yes, yes! I guess even they couldn’t walk properly when you hit their legs…. This is the first time I saw it.”

Even the level 40 and 42 users won’t be able to close their mouth if they see something for the first time.

They had been through a lot after hearing that Middle Earth was realistic, but they couldn’t help but be surprised every time they saw something like this.

It was unavoidable.

Dealers who rely on the combat assistance system do not aim and fire at a specific area, and even if they do, the projectile does not fly there.

“Matsushige-nim!”

“Ha, hat! Yes, we are preparing.”


When Leeha made a low and thick voice, matsushige came to his senses. Even if their movements had slowed down, the two kobolds were running towards Leeha. Full of anger.

If Matsushige missed it, Leeha’s life would be in danger.

“Ka- Kaat-!”

The kobold guards barely managed to climb the hill and into the bushes.

“Double slash!”

Matsushige jumped and swung his sword twice.

When a series of diagonal slashes hit the kobold guards once, their target changed in an instant.

“H-human! Ka-”

“Kill! Village, protect!”

Although they were small in height, they have muscle mass that exceeded that of an adult male.

Even though it may look sloppy at first glance, kobolds are also monsters. When they swung their spear it was pretty scary.

“Protection!”

As soon as Mame Hana’s green magic enveloped Matsushige, the kobold guard stabbed its spear out.

“Hmm!”

Kaang-!

However, matsushige got only lightly brushed.

It was a 130cm tall kobold, and had more strength and skills than an adult male, but at least right now, it couldn’t compete with Matsushige.

It was already slowed down by Leeha, and a lot of its stamina has been consumed.

“Slash!”

“Kat-!”


Matsushige’s sword cut the kobold guard’s forearm in half. Green blood oozed out of the forearm, which was rattling like a broken branch.

Leeha frowned and moved from his position.

There was a second point to test.

The moment Matsushige faced the two kobold guards in front of him, Leeha moved to the spot where the two kobolds lined up.

In other words, he aimed at the kobolds from the right that was further from Matsushige, and not behind him.

“Human?”

“Ka, hu-!”

“Ha Leeha-nim, you can’t go too far! There might be aggro-!”

Taa–

Pik, pik.

—aang!

“What did you say? Mame Hana-nim?”

Leeha, unable to hear Mame Hana’s shout, asked with a calm expression only after firing the musket.

“Ah…”

“W-What?”

However, neither Matsushige nor Mame Hana could answer Leeha’s words.

“What? What happened, Ha Leeha-nim?”

“What?”

Matsushige and Mame Hana could not hide their surprise even while blowing away the white smoke.

“How did both of them die at the same time?”


The two kobold guards fell down at the same time.

Mame Hana couldn’t see from behind, but Matsushige, who was blocking their attack, did.

Something popped out of the right kobold and entered the temple of the one on the left.

“Pierce.”

“Heol..”

Was that even possible?

Matsushige himself used his thrust skill to make a powerful stab, and there was a time when his sword pierced even the monster on the back.

But was it possible to kill other monsters in that way?

It was definitely different from general users.

Leeha looked at Matsushige and smiled.

“Hey, don’t be surprised. The two of them were together and the fact that I was close, it worked for me. Normally, it’s not possible.”

Leeha laughed and picked up the item dropped by the kobold guards, but he was surprised as well.

He tried it just in case.

‘I was wondering if I could do to these guys the same thing I did with the spiders… if shot at this distance, it could penetrate their temple. First of all, the toughest monster was the bear, then kobolds, then spiders or bats.’

At least, it was known that the skin of a humanoid monster was not tougher than an animal.

What about the bear with a thick skin? Of course he was lower leveled at that time, but when he shot the bear in the head, it wasn’t able to pierce its bone.

‘Does piercing have anything to do with the bullets? Musket? Skill? Hmm… I need to do more research.’

Leeha put the cobblestone necklace dropped by the kobold guard into his bag and inspected the Hijuit Village again.

What’s left now?

‘Right, it’s time to hunt. Here, I need to have a plan while hunting the patrols and guards as well as raising my level.’

They had to face various types of kobolds and had to go into the Hijuit village and check the shape of the village.

It was such a complicated situation.

On one hand, he wanted to dissolve the party, but on the other hand, there were a lot of variables, so he couldn’t.

Most of all, he felt sorry for the two people who came together with him.

Leeha decided to get more information and think about something else for the time being.

‘About the Hijuit Chieftain.’

He had to get to level 29 and look for the Chieftain at the same time.

Live information that could never be known through an internet search.

The most efficient way to hunt two rabbits: levelling up and collecting information.

‘Operation Name – Picking up a good tanker that listens well…. Limit.’

Leeha looked at Matsushige and Mame Hana alternately.

“Now, shall we move to the next one?”

“Oh dear. Thanks to Ha Leeha-nim, we will level up soon.”

“Hehehe, that’s true. Amazing!”

Mame Hana put on a cute expression and smiled, but Leeha simply laughed without answering.

Their next target was a kobold patrol.

Later, he had to hunt the guards near the entrance, deal with the kobolds in the guard tower and enter the village.

That was his first goal.

“Let’s go.”

Taaang–!

A bullet with 71% accuracy at 69m dug into the kobold patrol’s thigh.

“Ka-kat! Humans, humans!”

“Ah, come to think of it, does this make sense?”

“Yes? What are you talking about all of a sudden?”

Matsushige suddenly remembered to ask, but Leeha did not answer.

It was good… to enter the village. That was a good path. However, it was dangerous. But what if they could communicate with these guys?

‘Even if we don’t go in… can I catch and ask them?’

It might be a little quicker to dig up information about the Chieftain.

“Matsushige-nim, you need to tank this guy a little longer. Hehe.”

Matsushige and Mame Hana felt goosebumps as soon as they heard the sound of Leeha’s laughter.

“Kaa- Die, human!”

The kobold patrol struggled hard, but his body didn’t move properly.

“Hmm, if you resist like that, you won’t be able to do anything.”

“Kaat! Kaaa! Kakakat!”

When Leeha approached and teased his fingers, he drooled and spat out laughter. Next to them, matsushige and Mame Hana looked at him with puzzled eyes.

“Now, let me ask you one more time. How does the chief get out? Weakness?”

“Kaa- I am from the proud Hijuit Tribe-!”

“Phew, this bastard…. Matsushige-nim? Please hold it tighter.”

Leeha looked at Matsushige with an annoyed expression on his face.

Leeha’s neck became stiff when he looked at Matsushige who was sitting down.

“That, that, no matter how… it is a monster…”

“Don’t worry. There were a lot of people who thought they were going to die due to tickling, but I haven’t seen one who really died.”

“Okay…”

Matsushige tightened his grip on the kobold patrol’s wrist.

Immobilizing the legs and fixing its arms with a rope… tickle torture?

How could such absurd things work with monsters?

It was no wonder that Matsushige and Mame Hana felt absurd.

“Kaat-! Kaa, don’t do it, human! Stop!”

A kobold patrol screamed. But no matter how hard it tried, it couldn’t get out.

“You know, it’s okay to talk, right? This is different from other tortures. You won’t be able to die, or faint.”

“Kaa-! I can not say! I am a proud kobold patrol of the Hijuit Tribe-!”

“Right, right. Let’s see how proud you are.”

Leeha scratched the kobold’s side and armpit again.

“Kakakat, kakakat! Kakat!”

The kobold patrol spat out and shivered lightly.

‘I didn’t know if this kind of torture method would work, so I tried it first…’

I never thought it would work on the first try.

Even Leeha who tickled the kobold felt it absurd. Cutting its thighs with a mana bayonet, covering its nose and mouth, cutting off its fingers…. Leeha thought of rough ways, however, tickling worked.

“Hey, patrol. Talk. How do you call the Chieftain! You should know it. The Chieftain should be in there anyway.”

“Kaa, kaa……. I am proud-!”

“This bastard.”

“Kaaaak! Kaaat!”

Should he change the torture to something that causes physical pain? Or would that kind of torture not work in the first place?

Every time he heard the kobold patrol repeat his words, Leeha tickled the kobold, but there was still no result.

Still, he persistently tickled the kobold.

His obsession with information was truly remarkable.

‘No, there’s no way a patrol kobold didn’t know. Matsushige and Mame Hana knew that there was a Chieftain’s residence inside the iron mine. But one can’t go inside it. It must be brought out.’

Matsushige and Mame Hana said that they never personally witnessed, but knew about the Chieftain.

Inside the iron mine.

It was said that the Chieftain and his bodyguards were located in the burrows used by the Hijuit Kobold Tribe for the storage and nursing area.

However, in order to enter the iron mine, it was said that at least one raid team should attempt it, so Leeha ultimately had to find a way to bring out the Chieftain.

‘Should I just kill it and move on to the next one?’

Leeha glanced at the kobold patrol, breathing heavily.

‘Okay, let’s do it one more time.’

Leeha eventually placed the loaded musket on the kobold patrol’s forehead.

“Bye. I’m just going to kill you.”

“Ka, ka- Chieftain doesn’t come out! Kaa- If nothing special, kaa-!”

“What? Something special?”

As soon as the musket was placed on its forehead, it blurted out information. If Leeha had known this would be the case, he would have done it earlier without torture.

“What is that special thing?”

“Kaa- the c-crisis of the tribe at stake! Kaa- humans who never leave! Kaa!”

“Dignity? Humans that don’t leave? What is that? Please tell me in detail.”

Leeha pressed the musket on the kobold patrol’s forehead. The expression on the kobold patrol’s face, which had been trembling before, changed.

Leeha immediately recognized it. That all the hints that could be given on Middle Earth had already come out.

“I am a proud-”

“It must be the limit. Damn it.”

Leeha pulled the trigger.

(To be continued…)
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“Ha Leeha-nim…”

“Ah, sorry. Was it too much for a lady?”

Mame Hana did not put on a grimace.

Leeha didn’t know what her job was in real life, but at least in Middle Earth, she was a sister (healer).

Mercy, tolerance and love. The master of white magic, a nun of Apollo. The act of extorting information by torturing monsters could not have seemed nice.

“By the way, why are you asking about the kobold Chieftain all of a sudden? I know it’s in the iron mine, but I have never heard of it being caught. Anyway, it would be too much for the three of us…”

“Ah, yeah?”

Leeha was a little surprised.

After all, the Chieftain is a monster, doesn’t it respawn when it dies? By the way, no one had ever caught it before? It was a little bit incomprehensible.

“I was just curious, so I asked.”

At Matsushige’s question, Leeha answered vaguely.

There was no need to talk about his quest, and there was no need to reveal the fact that he had to hunt it.

‘Anyway, the Chieftain is inside. Because Matsushige and Mame Hana also said they had heard of it.’

But it definitely bothered Leeha to hear that it had never been caught.

‘They said that there was a raid, but they were not able to catch it? I didn’t think that it would be too strong. After all, even if only one person over level 100 comes, there would be no way they couldn’t catch it. But they couldn’t catch it? Were they unable to enter, is it something like that?’

Leeha realized the first important point.

First, to snipe. Second, a person who never leaves. Third, it comes at an important time. Fourth, the crisis of the tribe.

These four may be all the keywords that can clear his quest.


After thinking for a while, Leeha asked Matsushige.

“Have you ever been inside the village?”

“Hmm, inside? Yes, we went in once…”

It was Mame Hana who nodded her head at Leeha’s question. If they’ve been inside, the conversation would be easier.

“Do you want to go in again today?

I think we’ve hunted all but one watchtower at the entrance.”

“Hmm… What do you think, ma-chan?”

Mame Hana inflated her cheeks and looked at Matsushige. It was the tanker who decided whether they should change their hunting ground or not.

“Hmm…”

“We have to go to level up. There are only three of us, so the experience would be pretty good. Matsushige-nim is also strong.”

Leeha encouraged Matsushige with great enthusiasm.

“There are a lot of kobolds in the village. I mean a lot. No matter how careful we are, it will be dangerous.”

Matsushige was pessimistic.

If there was another party nearby, forming a raid team would be the go to approach, but there were no users around now.

“Wouldn’t it be better to wait for other users? We’ll wait while catching monsters around here, and then we’ll form a party with them when they come.”

“That’s a good idea.”

Leeha accepted Matsushige’s proposal.

He had to level up to 29 anyway. Leveling here was quite fast. Leeha considered leveling-up one of the most important tasks in Middle Earth.

Above all, because he was only level 26, the experience he got at a level 40 hunting ground was huge.

‘It’s been about four hours since I entered Sheymoore Mountain. I caught a few monsters while coming, and I caught a few near the top… And it’s already 78%. When I arrived at Sheymoore Village, it was only at 7%, so my experience increased by 71% in 4 hours.’


The last time Leeha raised his experience so quickly was when he was around level 5-6.

“Then, I’ll bring another one.”

Leeha took his musket and went to the village.

Leeha got to level 27 instantly. As Matsushige and Mame Hana, who thought that Leeha was level 41, celebrated, a group of users approached Leeha’s party.

“If we could party with other people, I would like to see the Chieftain as well. I think it would be better to hunt if we have more party members. Ha Leeha-nim is so strong that I think we would be able to catch it.”

“Haha. I know, right?. I want to see it too.”

At Matsushige’s words, Leeha smiled and nodded.

Even if Chieftain Hijuit-Ka appeared, it was impossible to hunt it with party play. Because it was one of the quest failure conditions.

In other words, matsushige and Mame Hana were only important until they met the Chieftain, however, when the Chieftain appeared, their party would disband.

‘What are they saying? To be honest, I like it… a little. But, I don’t like lying to them, either.’

When Leeha was thinking and worrying alone…

“Oh, ma-chan!”

“Yes, hana-chan?”

“There are people! People came! They must have come to hunt!”

Mame Hana was the first to spot them.

Matsushige and Leeha were also happy with her particularly happy expression.

“A-are they here?”

“Where? There are a lot?”

“Yes! There’s a lot! You can also see a familiar pattern!”

Mame Hana smiled innocently. Familiar pattern? What pattern?


“Hana-chan, are you familiar with that pattern? Where?”

“Yes, I don’t know what kind of guild it is. I’m just familiar with the guild mark. Ma-chan, look.”

“Ah……”

“Heol…”

At the same time, matsushige and Leeha let out an admiration and sigh at the same time. We met here? Right, it may be a familiar pattern to the Japanese. Of course, Leeha was also familiar.

However, it was more or less an ill feeling. It was the person in front of him.

He too saw Leeha and shouted.

“Hey, you bastard!!!! Did you think you could run away!!!?”

A symbol of the Rising Sun, symbolically a drawing of a red sun on a yellow background. The person walking in front of them was Petal Kim.

‘How did that bastard know this place?’

Even if he knew. Did they come to look for Leeha? Did they have so much time?

‘Haa… I’m getting tired of this shit.’

Leeha sighed.

Petal Kim was so tenacious that it made him think that he would have rather thrown every piece of equipment he got.

“Didn’t I say that I would follow you and get my revenge? Hyung-nim, it is him!”

“Oh, shit. It’s real. Agonia Oso’s coat, cap and boots, right?”

“Yes! That’s right, hyung-nim. If you can make that bastard drop all of his items by killing him repeatedly, the items will belong to you.”

Petal Kim, who got to persuade his guildmates by bending and bowing, rubbed his hands. The total number of users, including Petal Kim, was ten.

‘Is that person here to catch me?’

Leeha looked at Petal Kim and the people behind him.

‘Come to think of it, Petal Kim must have reached level 30. He was in his late 20s at that time. Of course, he must have reached level 30. Then it would be natural to know about the kobold hunting ground. If he saw Leeha heading west, Petal Kim might have had some suspicions.

Not to mention Leeha, who used a musket and wore a fine leather coat. He could quickly find him just by asking a few questions to users.

‘The guys in the back… they should be around the same level as Matsushige. No, maybe a little higher?’

If one looked at it, they would roughly be between level 40 and 50.

Even if only one or two of them came, the situation would be dangerous. Thinking that there were nine such guys, Leeha was slightly nervous.

“Hey you! Cancel your party with that dealer and send him over here!”

A member of the Rising Sun Guild stepped forward.

“W-w-why? What did this person do?”

Matsushige stood up proudly, but his voice wavered.

“That bastard is an infamous looter. Maybe when you die, that bastard will loot your item? He’s a bastard with bad manners, so you should just cancel your party and leave. So that you don’t get implicated.”

Said the Rising Sun guild member with a sword.

They were convinced that Mame Hana and Matsushige were lower level than them, so they threatened them.

“H-Ha Leeha-nim?”

“You don’t believe it, do you?”

“Of course Ha Leeha-nim isn’t like that, but…. This situation is a bit… We want to help you, but I don’t think that we can.”

Matsushige said.

Mame Hana also frowned and walked behind Matsushige.

They did not throw him away, but it was close to asking him to get out of the situation on his own. In fact, it was only natural, because they did not have any reason to fight 10 people for Leeha, who they had nothing to do with.

‘Indeed…. It is a game, but isn’t it similar to reality? Now, what should I do?’

Should Leeha just give up like this?

Matsushige and Mame Hana took a couple of steps back, away from Leeha. It clearly meant that they did not want to get involved. And on the other side, the ten members of Rising Sun guild were waiting.

Leeha looked towards the Rising Sun guild members.

“Heh, we heard from Petal Kim. You selfish bastard. You’re going to die anyway, and we don’t want to raise our chaotic index, so you decide. If you take off everything you’re wearing and give all the money you have… we will let you live.”

Said the man with a two-handed sword with a fairly long blade. Was it a bastard sword? Leeha judged that he was a fighter.

“However… If you refuse, as Petal Kim said, we will keep killing you until you drop everything you are wearing. We will keep going… Until you drop to level 5.”

Hearing the absurd threats from the Rising Sun Guild, Leeha opened his friends window. Was there anyone he could ask for help?

‘Ugh, well. It’s been a while in Middle Earth, but only 48 hours must have passed in reality.”

It was still not the time when Kijung would connect. The only person in Byulcho guild whose location appeared in the friend’s window was Hyein, who survived the Tiwi Canyon Battle.

However, Leeha did not want to ask Hyein.

“Answer me, you looting bastard!!!”

Petal Kim shouted from behind the Rising Sun guild member. Leeha thought that he was a pretty cool looking tanker, but now that he looked at it, it doesn’t look like that.

Leeha had to choose.

Take off all of Agonia Oso’s items and go down Sheymoore Mountain with Matsushige and Mame Hana. Resist Rising Sun guild and be killed repeatedly and drop items.

There wasn’t much to think about.

“Thank you for being with me so far.”

Leeha left the party. And he turned to the Rising Sun guild.

“Go to hell, you bastards.”

“Huh, what does this low-level bastard think he’s doing? Do you think you could beat us with a few good items?”

“What’s with all that talk? You gathered people because you don’t have the skills to fight one-on-one.”

“W-what?”

“Did you come here to look tough in front of me? No, to be honest, they don’t even look strong. Those bastards look like they are level 50…”

“T-t-this bastard!”

The Rising Sun fighter’s face turned red.

Leeha’s words hurt their pride. In fact, it was true that the ten people, including Petal Kim, may be a threat, but they did not look that much to Leeha.

It was inevitable, Leeha had already met the Sacred Knights, members of Byulcho guild and Ram Hwajung.

‘Well, I am not in a position to look down on them.’

Leeha raised his musket. He couldn’t believe he would be fighting people all of a sudden.

‘It is not a duel of mutual agreement. It’s PvP. The first one to attack will be at a disadvantage.’

There was no need for Leeha to shoot first. As the Rising Sun guild member said, if they attack people, their chaotic index would rise, and their Continental Reputation will be decreased or in severe cases, they might turn into wanted criminals.

“Hyung-nim, are you ready?”

“Is everything prepared? Hey! Start!”

The fighter from the Rising Sun shouted, and a man stepped forward.

Without saying anything, a formation appeared and Leeha judged that these people were quite proficient in PK.

In fact, one of the most infamous guilds in the community boards below level 100 was the Rising Sun guild.

“Matsushige-nim, mame Hana-nim, if I survive, let’s form a party together next time. Run away now.”

“W-what about Ha Leeha-nim? Are you going to fight them?”

“There’s nothing I can do about it.”

“No, no, no! No way! Just say you’re wrong!”

Mame Hana grabbed Leeha’s arms with tears in her eyes. Even if they don’t fight together, even with this much interest, Leeha knew that these two were good people.

Leeha gently removed Mame Hana’s hand.

“Matsushige-nim, see you next time.”

“Yes. Let’s go, hana-chan. Quickly! It’s dangerous if we get caught up in it!”

“Ha Leeha-nim! Ha Leeha-nim!”

Only after Leeha saw that Matsushige held Mame Hana’s hand and went down Sheymoore Mountain, could he focus on the Rising Sun Guild.

“Hahaha, you’re fighting us alone? Okay, fine. I will make you quit Middle Earth.”

Appearing next to the man with a two-handed sword was a man in black robe.

The first thing Leeha saw was the weapon in his hand.

‘Wand?’

Black particles were absorbed into his body. It meant that his casting had begun.

Only then did Leeha recognize the man’s weapon.

“…Bone?”

“Taste the fear of the warlock! Nightmare”

Kuuooong-!

In an instant, a skeleton horse jumped out of the bone wand he was holding. It had a semi-transparent body, a rattling and ugly appearance.

It was kind of like a nightmare.

『User ‘Kuschner’ attacked you. A hostile relationship is formed.』

『Chaotic index will not increase when attacking a hostile user.』

(To be continued…)
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“How is it? Did he get caught? Is he caught?”

The warrior from the Rising Sun guild, who held a two-handed sword, asked Kuschner.

“Huhu, I couldn’t even move. Tikal hyung-nim. There is no cure to fear. We have killed so many people so far. A low-level like him can be insta killed.”

It was necessary to gather a crowd of people in order to cast such a spell. Warlock’s Nightmare skill.

Paralysis caused by poison can be cured using an antidote or cure magic, but fear was a difficult magic to solve.

It was virtually impossible to solve it alone without the help of those around you.

“Hehe. You bastard, what happened to your attitude before? Guys!”

“Yes, hyung-nim.”

“Get ready.”

Obviously, after Kuschner used ‘Nightmare’, he was stuck in the same position as the Musketeer.

‘You bastard. You dare ignore me?’

Anyway, tikal had no intention of becoming a strong player in Middle Earth.

He played the game to relieve stress. Tikal was level 61, but he thought that his effort was worth it in this low-level section.

‘So Guild Master entrusted me as the action leader, didn’t he? Heuheu. If I pay using those items, will he give me another epaulette (EN: An ornamentation, worn on the shoulders of a military uniform, as a sign of rank)? Dragging around a dozen or so people that I don’t like is a good way to relieve stress.’

PvP was also a fun activity.

Especially in Middle Earth where one could feel the sense of death.

In any case, it was not only pleasurable to attack and harass others, but it was also recognized as one of the ways to obtain equipment that is difficult to obtain.

‘Kill and obtain money. Killing two birds with one stone. And no one could touch us.’


Rising Sun guild was a guild that killed, threatened, and extorted items on the pretext of guiding nameless users, especially in low-mid level sections.

If one donated a good item, one gets the authority of the ‘action leader’ in the guild.

Action leaders collect rewards to further raise their ranks, and normal guild members pursue PK harder to become action leaders.

In other words, multi-level PK!

The Rising Sun Guild Master must at least know how to deal with people.

“Huh… Are you ready?”

“Yes, hyung-nim!”

Tikal raised one hand after confirming that they were ready.

“Go get him! If you catch him-!”

Taaang—!

Before he could finish, a loud sound rang out.

“Waaah!”

“Uwaak? What!”

“Uh, uh, what happened?”

A cry in the midst of confusion.

“T-tikal-nim! Kuschner is d-d-dead!”

“What? Why?”

“That bastard, t-that bastard moved!”

At the guild member’s words, tikal turned his head again. That bastard? And he saw white smoke that came out of the muzzle of the musket.

Did that low-level who was feared, really move? Wasn’t he supposed to be unable to move for two minutes?


“No way, how…. Does it mean he was not feared?”

『You resisted the ‘Fear’ abnormal status.』

‘Yes, I didn’t get feared.’

Leeha moved quickly again. There was nothing to worry about. He must win! Leeha’s judgment was swift.

‘Delicate Hand Technique.’

『Beginner’s Delicate Hand Technique (Lv.1)』

Description: A skilled musketeer can always pour the precise amount of gunpowder. Always keeps his hands precise.

Effect: Fixed reload time of 30 seconds for 5 minutes.

Mana: 100

Cooldown: 6 hours.

Leeha marveled at the effectiveness of Agonia Oso’s set equipment.

It was the basic effect of 3 pieces of equipment. His total resistance to fear was a whopping 50%.

If the opponent had a 100% chance of applying the Nightmare skill, there was a one in two chance of resisting.

How much more would the probability rise if the fear was only cast by a level 55 user?

If the resistance was 50%, it was not an exaggeration to say that it was impossible to get feared.

Besides, he was prepared for the fear by listening to their chatter. He did not have to wait anymore.

‘They were already chaotic users. It means that there would be no penalty even if I attacked them first.’

Leeha’s movements were quick.

As soon as he picked up the gunpowder bag, he was sensitive enough to measure its weight. Just like a skilled violin player, the second reload ended like flowing water.

His enemies were still in chaos.


“Come on, get him! Hey! All of you, get that bastard! Don’t we have any ice magic”

“N-no one came with us today. I will shoot first!”

One archer stepped forward. He was holding a longbow. His range was sufficient.

“Shoot him! Add poison and slow him down!”

“Okay, I’ll get him in one shot, hyung-nim. Keok!”

At that moment, another gunshot rang.

–Taaang! At the same time, the archer holding the longbow flew backward.

“W-what?”

The archer’s corpse turned gray and rolled on the floor.

Leeha’s hand started to move like lightning again.

“That, that bastard uses a gun! Shield up! Block in front of me!”

It was only then that Tikal realized the seriousness of the situation.

He was a low level? Then how could they explain this? Did he kill the level 55 Kuschner and level 53 Jinai in one shot? He himself couldn’t even do that?

In fact, Leeha was in an extremely unfavorable situation.

Even if only two of them attacked at the same time, or even with just one, Leeha would run into serious trouble.

He was 50m away, and even if he ran, they would reach him in 30 seconds.

The Rising Sun members were in a panic by Leeha’s overwhelming attack power.

“I’m going to stop him, tikal-nim!”

Petal Kim approached and stood in front of Tikal. Tikal looked at Leeha and screamed again.

“What are you bastards doing? Hurry up and get him!”

Tikal shouted like a whale for the first time.

The tankers and dealers ran towards Leeha. After that, one healer and one mage followed. Leeha became impatient.

“Hyung-nim, his reload time is long. I know because I saw it before” said Petal Kim.

“Really? Well then, we’ll catch him soon……”

Baaang–!

A gunshot rang out again.

Before the tanker and dealer could get close, another gunshot rang out, and the healer’s head exploded.

“I thought he had a long reload time?”

Tikal glared at Petal Kim as if to kill him, but he did not get angry anymore. Right now, the musketeer was the priority.

He could punish Petal Kim later after they caught that guy.

“Move quickly, you bastards, are you saying that bastard is a low-level?”

“W-well, he must have been level 30…”

Tikal raised his head and glared at Petal Kim.

In the meantime, Leeha looked at the approaching Rising Sun guild members.

They started running and were about 15m away. It was now impossible to reload while standing.

“Catch him! Catch and kill him!”

Leeha ran without pouring gunpowder.

“He ran away, hyung-nim!”

Tikal got feverish. How could they be so incompetent! To be fooled by a single user who was low leveled compared to themselves!

“Then follow him, you bastards! Don’t just tell me!”

And looking at Petal Kim, he said.

“You bastard, pick the kids’ stuff.”

Then, Petal Kim looked around. There were already three dead people with their equipment dropped before disappearing. Petal Kim moved to pick them up, but a tanker’s bewildered voice was heard from behind.

“Hyung-nim… the way that bastard ran… wasn’t it into the kobold village?”

A tanker tilted his head and looked at Tikal.

“You bastard, how many level 50 users are here, and you’re afraid to go inside the kobold village! Do you want to die?”

“No. I’m sorry.”

“Anyway, you bastards… Hey, Petal Kim, you follow too.”

“You follow that bastard! Run-!”

“Shut up, three people have already died because of you. Do you know what happens to you, the informant, if this fails?”

Gulp, at Tikal’s words, Petal Kim swallowed dry saliva.

“Yes. I know hyung-nim.”

“Then, shut up and follow me!”

Tikal released all of his irritation and annoyance and pursued Leeha.

“Ma-chan, ma-chan. They just entered the village!”

“Shh, be quiet, hana-chan. Just watch.”

“Will mister Ha Leeha be okay?”

“Well. If he asked for help, we would have helped, but he didn’t. Anyways, Koreans…”

“Isn’t he cool? Kek, I thought I was watching a movie. After all, there was no way we could help!”

“Hmm, why not, hana-chan. We have brought a lot of things in advance. I could have killed ten of them in 5 minutes.”

Matsushige took off his helmet and scratched his head.

“Hey, what did you get from Oto-san, ma-chan?”

“Well, this and that. He told me to use it when Hana-chan is in danger.”

“Hmmph, don’t talk to me! But why did the Rising Sun come?”

Mame Hana made a pitiful expression on her face, then quickly released it and asked Matsushige.

“They said Ha Leeha is a looter. I don’t know.”

“Did you report it to Oto-san?”

“I did not. I only mentioned that the Rising Sun appeared. Its master is ‘Kyokujitsu’, right? Oto-san will get in touch with you. I don’t think we should interfere.”

“What do you mean?”

Mame Hana looked at Matsushige with her eyes twinkling.

‘You look like you’re dying of fun.’

It was the complete opposite of the naive appearance she had so far.

“They want you to keep a good record. They didn’t say anything when I said he killed a Warlock and Archer in their 50s.”

“Hweeee! Hana-chan was very surprised by that! Didn’t you use a scroll? How is it possible, he is really only level 27? Although his abilities are hidden… is there something, ma-chan?”

Mame Hana wanted to follow them to the village, even now.

“Well… Anyway, there must be a reason why Oto-san designated him as a potential threat. Not even a level 30 is that strong… how much stronger would he be at level 200, no, at level 100?”

Matsushige put on his helmet again as he continued speaking.

“It looks like they are all inside, shall we go too, hana-chan?”

“Yes. Let’s go, ma-chan.”

Matsushige and Mame Hana, who had been hiding in the thicket, entered Hijuit Tribe Village.

Gunshots could be heard from inside.

(To be continued…)
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“Catch him! Get that bastard!”

The Rising Sun guild members ran until the soles of their feet were sweaty.

However, Leeha’s speed was more than 10% faster than theirs. Rather than narrowing their distance down, it was getting wider and wider. Moreover, since there were countless small houses of kobolds, they realized that the gap between them widened every time they turned a corner.

“Mage! Shoot him, what are you doing?”

“The, the… the distance when casting is widening, haaa, haaa, magic 一 haa, haa.”

“Damn it!”

The only person capable of ranged attack, the mage, was not able to cast.

It took at least 5 seconds to cast magic, by then, Leeha would have long disappeared from his view.

To make matters worse, his stamina was already starting to drop, so instead of chasing, he was doing his best not to get left behind.

“Why isn’t that bastard getting tired? How much did that dealer invest into stamina!”

“How would I know! Catch him quickly! If Tikal-nim comes, he will be pissed.”

“Don’t I know that?”

They have to contribute. They have to get the loot.

Agonia Oso’s equipment is rated A-class among the items that could be worn below level 100.

‘In other words, anyone who gets it and offers it to the GM… will be the next action leader.’

If one became an action leader, they could get a lot of money, and above all, they don’t have to be ripped off by that bitch Tikal.

All of the guild members who followed Tikal’s order were frantic. In terms of bullying the weak, all Rising Sun guild members have the same tendencies, so there was no sense of companionship.

They just wanted to step on Tikal with their colleagues next to them.


“Hey, if you can’t use attack magic, try detection! Whether or not there are traps. That leech-like bastard runs away well even when it’s already been so long.”

“Haa, haa, then please stop and protect me.”

“Why do kobolds keep popping out? Okay!”

They had already run for more than 10 minutes into the Hijuit village.

Although it was a large town, the commotion made by humans was enough for the kobolds to hear it.

Of course, if one or two popped out, they couldn’t threaten the five, level 50 users, however, the Rising Sun guild members were humans too. Even if they were not overwhelmingly strong, if kobolds came out in large numbers, they would have difficulties withstanding it. Before that, they had to catch that bastard.

“Cast now!”

“Quickly!”

A milky white light entered the mage’s body.

It didn’t take long for the magic to indicate the location and direction of the target they were aiming for.

“Detect!”

Hwaaang—!

A milky light source that spread over the entire village of the Hijuit tribe. The light spread like a ripple and was absorbed back into the mage’s body.

And the mage knew. He felt as if he could grasp the target his mana detected.

About 30m to the right.

In the corner of the kobold house!

He was nearby? Didn’t he run anymore?

“Find it- sehahahak!”

Taaang—!

The mage’s body fell like a felled tree. Kuung, a corpse turned gray with its face pierced.


“Where the fuck is that bastard-!”

“There! Look at the direction where the shot came from, this asshole! He’s over there!”

“Beat it! You kobold bastards!”

The Rising Sun guild members’ complexions darkened. Now, they had no detection. They have to run on their feet.

Where the hell is he hiding!

‘Now, I have killed all the annoying ones.’

Leeha quickly reloaded and started running again.

The Delicate Hand Technique skill has already finished, and he wouldn’t be able to use it for a while because of its cooldown, but it was enough.

‘Two mages, one archer and one healer. Four people for 15 minutes after his first shot.’

Still, it was a satisfactory result. First of all, they were higher level than himself, and he didn’t take any damage.

“Ka-! Humans, invaded village!”

“Boundary, ka-! Alarm bell, ringing!”

Two kobolds popped out in front of Leeha, who was just running around the corner.

Their size was a bit small. Kobold workers?

Leeha fired while lifting the loaded musket.

A smooth movement of his finger led to the explosion of one kobold’s head.

“Bayonet Charge!”

“Ka!”

Leeha did not use the combat assistance system.

Even though it was a kobold worker that needed a level 30 hunting party to be caught, it was already a piece of cake for Leeha.


There was a gunshot! This was it!

Catch him! Follow me, hurry up!

‘Tsk. That’s why I didn’t want to use it.’

Leeha was learning the fatal flaw of a musket. Exposure!

Predicting the direction where the bullet had flown was something that only those who were familiar with combat or have quite a lot of knowledge can know.

However, the musket could be located precisely because of the loud noise and the white smoke that rose into the sky like fire.

If one had eyes and ears, one would not miss even if one tried to miss it.

Leeha quickly got a bag of gunpowder.

Still, the reload took longer than usual. This was the first time Leeha had fought users.

They had better judgment and movements than NPCs.

As a result, he became tense, and when one is tense, ones’ body becomes rigid.

‘Slowly, but quickly!’

It was contradictory, but it was an accurate judgment. The slower he moved, the faster his actions would be.

I put the iron bullets in and ran, tapping the butt of the musket to the ground.

The butt of the low-grade, crude musket rattled.

‘Did the durability drop a little?’

But the reload was complete.

‘What’s next?’

The location of the monster was not displayed on the map, but the terrain and features were sufficiently familiar.

‘Now, we’re in the center of the village. A big tree would appear.’

They had to go around two corners to get here, and if that was the case… Leeha rolled up his map again and started running.

“Haa, haa. This dog… Where did he go?”

“Huu, just now, huu–, I heard a sound from here.”

“This is driving me crazy. How could he run away so well? He seems to know the way.”

The Rising Sun guild members paused to replenish their stamina.

A kobold’s house was smaller than a human’s house, but it was still a house.

The human eye could not see beyond its roof.

“There’s not many more kobolds left. If they keep coming out, it might get really hard.”

“Huu, huuu–, I think we’ve hunted most of them now, right? There’s no more coming. By the way, where did that bastard go?”

“Didn’t he go inside the iron mine?”

“No way. How did he get in there? We can’t even get in… Where the hell did he hide?”

They could not find any traces of the musketeer.

“What about Tikal-nim?”

“… He is following the kobold corpses. Almost everyone is here.”

“Phew, haven’t we played hide and seek in this place for 20 minutes already?”

“I don’t know. What should we do about this?”

They were more annoyed that they had to catch him to contribute.

It took two to three minutes to run. And their target just kept running, without any clear goal.

“Ah, if I knew this would happen, I should have just hunted some lizard bastards. I heard they at least drop an A+ grade and S+ at most.”

“I know, right? I shouldn’t have followed Tikal hyung-nim.”

“Phew, I also gave up on hunting the giant that drops A-grade cape. I came here because I liked the Brown Bear’s more than the eagle’s, but I think I made the wrong choice. We encountered a lot of trouble at the same time. Something big will happen as usual.”

The Rising Sun guild was quite large.

There were so many people that it could be said that there was no place in a low to a mid-level hunting ground in the Fibiel Kingdom that did not have a Rising Sun guild member in it.

They have various information systems, a large number of people, money, and power.

In other words, there was a continuous flow of information for low to mid-level users who picked up good items, and if there were such information, they would unconditionally create a team to extort money or items.

It was also encouraged to use violence directly, so people who suffered from the Rising Sun guild wanted to join them and wear their armbands, instead of getting revenge against such a huge guild.

“What are you bastards talking about?”

“T-Tikal hyung-nim!”

It was the worst timing for the guild members, as Tikal arrived when they were talking about him behind his back.

“Haa, are you complaining about following me? Are you dissatisfied?”

“No, sir.”

The guild members bowed their heads, but Tikal’s expression became even more distorted.

“It was all like that back then. You bastards, did you think that I got to where I am just by playing? I have been contributing steadily to our guild since I was level 20, to get to where I am now!”

“Yes.”

“Anyway, you young bastards these days don’t want to suffer. It’s all about money and profit for you to move. When I was your age, hah! Effort! Service! Solidarity! Devotion! It was natural. Where did you get the arrogance…”

Everybody knew that it was not true.

Tikal was a primary example of a person who bought gold with cash, gave it to the guild master, and wore the armband.

“Even at my company, a lot of newbies sneak away because they cannot handle the pressure, but it’s the same in-game as well? If you are an adult, you walk it off. If your senior is there, you stick with them. Cheeky bastards. You should do your work properly…”

Swearing and anger continuously poured out.

Tikal’s anger towards his corporate life also spread to the guild members.

“No, do you bastards think this is unfair? It’s not all about you. When an adult speaks, you only need to listen and answer yes.”

“Why aren’t you answering? Hey!”

Tikal shouted. The Rising Sun guild members, who were full of irritation, did not open their mouths as if in protest.

There was only one person who opened his mouth.

“No, you bastard. It’s really too much.”

Leeha’s hands and mouth showed his anger.

Taaang—!

“K-kuuwak!!! My-my leg!”

“H hyung-nim!”

“Ah, aaah. My leg!”

Tikal grabbed his thigh and rolled over. If the pain was this serious, the assimilation rate should be more than 40%.

‘That’s too dramatic. I am not a hero of justice… but, that’s just too much.’

Leeha’s voice was heard from on top of the tree.

He was less than 25m away from where the Rising Sun guild members were. There was no way they would not hear and see the gunshot and smoke.

But, he could not stand it.

It was not like Leeha did not have any training. However, he only encountered someone like Tikal on the internet, but he didn’t really think it was real.

Because he was trying to treat people like slaves.

He was going to hide and wait, but Tikal’s words completely turned Leeha’s insides, so it must be said that Tikal was atrocious. Because there are no human beings that could treat people like that.

“It’s him, it’s the marksman!”

“Ha Leeha! That bastard’s name is Ha Leeha! Guild announcement, musketeer Ha Leeha! In the future, we will be targeting that bastard.”

Tikal grabbed his thigh and rolled around, screaming. Was it better if he was shot in the head? The problem was, he was shot in the leg, all to inflict pain.

If he died in one shot, he wouldn’t have even seen the system message on who his attacker was.

“Encircle him! What are you doing!”

“I-I understand!”

The Rising Sun guild members ran to the tree on which Leeha was located.

Climbing the tree was scary, but if they surround it, their target will have to come down eventually.

It was impossible to log out during battle… Leeha quickly finished reloading. His reload time was 53 seconds even when he was on top of a tree.

There were two tankers and two melee dealers surrounding the tree.

Petal Kim was perplexed as he saw Tikal’s gunshot wound.

‘There are six of us remaining. If he shot once, how long would the reload time be? 30 seconds? Will it take 40 seconds?’

Even the Rising Sun guild members knew that it takes a minute to reload.

Leeha was currently aiming at them, but once he shot, they wouldn’t miss the opportunity to catch him during his reload time.

(To be continued…)
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‘How do I get out of here? How…?’

Deeng… Deeng…

“Huh?”

“Hmm?”

“Why is there a bell ringing all of sudden?”

While time passed in a state of confrontation, a heavy bell sound rang out from within the village of the Hijuit Kobold Tribe.

It had been 30 minutes since Leeha had entered the village.

“A bell in the kobold village? Was there something like that?”

“This is the first time I am hearing it…”

The Rising Sun guild members were wary of Leeha, however, they listened in the direction of where the bell rang.

As soon as the bell stopped ringing, a noise was heard.

Kaaaaa!

“What is that? I-it’s a kobold!”

Tikal, who was spraying a potion on his leg, shouted.

And soon, all the users who entered the kobold village noticed what the bell meant.

Kaaaaaaah——!

『Hijuit-ka, the chieftain of the Hijuit Tribe, has appeared.』

『All the kobolds in the Hijuit Tribe will be 10% stronger.』


『Hijuit-Ka used Roar.』

『You are in a state of ‘Fear’.』 『You will be unable to move for 2 minutes.』

『Total HP reduced by 10%.』

『Stamina will be reduced to 30%.』

“Waah? Waaaah–”

“W-what is this?”

The Rising Sun guild member’s movement stood still, while Leeha was the only one who could see what was happening.

A crowd was approaching. It wasn’t just a few. Right now, it could be seen as a full-fledged army.

About 15 fully armed kobold guards. Besides, what was that behind them?

“Aish… It’s a kobold…”

It was obvious from the shape of its face that it was a kobold.

A sharp nose, like an arrow, and dark Brown cracked skin. But what the hell is that warrior’s scar next to its eye? Besides, how tall is it?

Maybe as tall as Matsushige?

Normal kobolds are 110cm tall, and kobold guards are 120-130cm. But what about that thing?

It should be around 180cm.

Even though he’s that tall, the muscles on his body seemed alive.

“Kaa–… Are you here to annihilate our tribe…?”

A former deputy commander of monsters in the second Human-Demon War, the apex of the Hijuit Kobold Tribe, hijuit-Ka appeared.

“I-Is that the chieftain? Ah, shit, why is the chieftain here? That was possible? Annihilation?”

“I-I-I have heard of it. It was in the mine… But wasn’t it impossible to raid? Why did he come out?”


“Guard! The guards are attacking!”

All of the Rising Sun guild members, including Tikal, were very nervous.

As they were talking nervously, they were unable to move under the affliction of the abnormal status debuff ‘Fear’.

“Uwaah, quick! Do something!”

“Eeek- it’s not working! They keep coming!”

“Wait! Wait a minute! That, c-chieftain-nim! Please stop. Listen to me!”

Does this mean they were going to die? It was Tikal who opened his mouth when they were in the situation that they could get attacked by kobold guards at any moment.

At Tikal’s words, all of the kobolds, including the Chieftain, stopped.

“Ka- what, kaa- do you have something to say-ka?”

“W-we, we didn’t come to get you! Ahm! We just came to catch someone. We’re leaving now. We’re just about to leave.”

“… Chasing-kaa- here?”

“Yes, he’s a marksman. I’m here to catch that marksman bastard. We never harm kobolds– no, we did not come here to hunt–”

“Then, ka- that sad thing behind you… who did it?”

“Huh? Sad?”

Hijuit-ka lifted the Eonwoldo (TN: like a spear, but with a sword at the end) he was holding and pointed. The Eonwoldo, which seemed like it needed to be held in both hands, looked like a weapon from the Three Kingdoms era.

“T-t-the fear is gone!”

“Huh?”

They lasted two minutes. The kobold guards only escorted their chieftain and did not attack.

Rather, they were curious about the death of the Hijuit Tribe members.

The Rising Sun guild members turned their heads. The corpses of kobolds were found littered everywhere.


“Ahh…. I-it’s caused by the marksman we’ve been chasing-.”

“Ka– lies… those are not wounds that a gun would inflict, kaa–”

Some of them were caused by Leeha, but most of them? It was caused by the Rising Sun guild members while chasing Leeha. One could tell just by looking at the cut marks on the kobold corpses.

It was a wound that a ‘marksman’ could not make.

They were not like trolls or ogres, one would not be able to trick a kobold. They were more intelligent than other monsters.

“Humans always lie, kaa—. They attacked our clan that was staying still, kaa–.”

Hijuit-Ka’s face contorted.

The atmosphere suddenly began to change, and Leeha could perceive it.

“We too, kaa-.”

Hoong——!

The chieftain swung his Eonwoldo. There was anger in its eyes.

“I can’t stand it, kaa–.”

Kaa– Kaa–!

“U-Uwwaaaah!”

“Don’t run away! The bastards! I-I can’t run away!”

Tikal hurriedly called his guild members. He wasn’t able to run away because his thigh was shot by Leeha.

No matter how he got up and walked, once the kobold guards started running, they would catch up quickly.

“Item! I’ll give you all the items! What would happen if we caught the chieftain? Ah, right! Aren’t the mines also the warehouse of the kobolds? We could take everything that’s in there! Help me, quick! Ah, fuck… I would also recommend you as the next action leader! Yes? Isn’t this good for you too? Quick!”

“Keuk…”

At Tikal’s words that sounded like a devil’s temptation, the guild members stopped, instead of running away.

‘He’ll give us all the items?’

The chieftain was a monster that could not be captured even when a raid party was formed.

A guy that could be seen, but could not be attacked. That guy was out now.

They had not heard of such a monster when they were leveling up.

‘There are a lot of guards, but even a level 40 user could catch them.’

‘And I’m fucking level 53… didn’t our dealer say he hit level 55? Even that asshole Tikal has the strength of a level 60 if he fully recovers.’

‘We can take them on even if they have the numbers. The problem is the chieftain… He might be slightly stronger than a kobold guard…’

They were done calculating their profits. It could be dangerous, but it was worth doing. Above all, the fact that it was an event-based raid that had never been made before made it more challenging.

It was only natural that they were drawn to the suggestion that they would be recommended as action leaders.

“Attack! Attack! Stand in front of the tankers and kill the guards first!”

“Petal Kim! Protect Tikal-nim! The low-level attack won’t work on you anyway so just tank!”

“I-I understand!”

The Rising Sun guild quickly formed a formation.

“Ka- Ka- Ka- Ka-. Arrogant humans, you will pay for your sins.”

The Chieftain, hijuit-Ka, started running between the kobold guards and the Rising Sun guild members.

“Oh my goodness…”

Leeha, who hid in the tree, let out a sigh.

By combining the keywords he heard from the kobold patrol and from what he heard from Hijuit-Ka, he finally put all the puzzles together.

‘The keyword of the tribe’s honor… the first condition was to kill almost all the kobolds in the village.’

The percentage was unknown, but at least 70% of the kobolds in the village must be killed before respawning.

In other words, it was to the extent that the tribe itself was threatened to disappear.

‘There was also the keyword for people who don’t leave… The second condition was for users to remain in the village even in such a state.’

Judging from the remaining cooldown time, Leeha ran around for 30 minutes.

Killing the kobolds and staying in the village for 30 minutes. Was that the secret to summoning the chieftain?

‘Or maybe, it was the other way around… right, it was more likely the opposite. Maybe it was not to stay for more than 30 minutes, what if they need to kill most of the kobolds ‘within’ 30 minutes? That would be difficult. There needed to be a lot of users that came to hunt, or experts needed to come. If so, that would be the only way, right? Are these the conditions for the chieftain to appear? In any case, from the field boss, the chieftain’s perspective, those two types of humans must be expelled. It would make hunting a lot more difficult.

‘So… it was like this.”

Leeha watched the scene with both eyes. The members of the Rising Sun guild did not know any hints or keywords, so they made a big mistake.

“Kuwaaak!”

In fact, one of the users was ‘split in two’.

It was the guy holding a two-handed axe, which made him look like a dealer. His upper and lower body got separated as Hijuit-Ka’s Eonwol ran across his waist.

“Heuuuuu.”

The Rising Sun guild fought quite well, even in Leeha’s eyes.

He was sure that they were around level 50.

He thought that there might have even been users who were close to level 60.

‘However, it was not enough.’

These kobold guards were stronger than the regular level 40 kobold guards.

The Rising Sun guild member’s health was getting lower, while Hijuit-Ka continued his attack.

His movements were overwhelmingly agile.

As a tall man wielding an Eonwoldo, it was difficult for dealers with ordinary swords to even approach him.

And the result was showing.

Five kobold guards remained. Hijuit-Ka suffered minor injuries to its body, but it didn’t appear serious.

However, of the Rising Sun guild members, only Tikal and Petal Kim were left. Tikal still had not recovered from the gunshot wound to his thigh that was given by Leeha.

“Don’t come! Don’t come!”

“Kaa- These humans. We did not provoke you.”

Hijuit-Ka walked towards Tikal.

“When you fight, kaa- you have to hold on. Until the third clash. Kaa-.”

“G-get lost! What are you talking about! Do not come! Do not come! Petal Kim! Protect me! Promptly!”

“H-How would I protect you?”

“This bastard! Do something! You’re a tanker!”

“You’re a tanker too!”

“I’m Ghibrid-tanker, you son of a bitch!”

Petal Kim stood up crying and bore with it. Hijuit-Ka stood in front of him.

“Fuck! Okay! Come and get me! High guard!”

Petal Kim shouted and activated his best tanking skill he had while holding two shields.

(To be continued…)
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But Hijuit-Ka was smart. It did attack from the front.

Like a user who turned off the combat assistance system, he moved to the side and cut off Petal Kim’s wrist in an instant.

Blood spurted out of Petal Kim’s wrist.

“Uwaaak! M-my arm! My arm!”

It was the result of excessive greed.

‘What kind of wealth and glory are you going to enjoy now? Poor guy…’

Besides, he was the one who harassed Leeha until the end, so there was nothing to feel sorry for.

“T-Tikal hyung-nim… hyung-nim…“ “Petal… Kim…”

Petal Kim cried and turned towards Tikal. However, hijuit-Ka showed no mercy. The neck of Petal Kim, who was not able to lift his shield anymore, was cut off in one stroke.

His head tumbled down from his body.

“You, kaa- you are the last one.”

“There’s still the marksman! Gunman, are you watching! Help me! If you help me, I won’t kill you! Huh?!”

Tikal shouted at random.

“Are you nearby? Where are you? Where are you? Hurry up and help me!”

“Kaa- a human remains, kaa-.”

Hijuit-Ka stopped and turned its head. It gave simple instructions to the kobold guards. The guards started searching.

‘You, you bastard! If you’re going to die, die beautifully!’

He was of no help to Leeha until the very end.


“Quick! Help me!”

Tikal wailed. It didn’t mean they would die together. Tikal sincerely hoped that Leeha would stand up for him.

‘Aren’t you delusional?’

How could he ever think like that? Does he think the world revolves around him? There was no one as oblivious as him.

Leeha was hiding on a big tree in the middle of the village, therefore it was hard to find him, however, there was no doubt that he was put into a dangerous situation because of Tikal’s shout.

For kobold guards that were 130cm tall, the tree was huge.

Even if they searched, Leeha won’t be caught immediately, but their searching ground was narrowed down, nonetheless.

‘I have already reloaded. But I can’t aim here.’

He needed to get a good position. Hijuit-Ka was right in front of Tikal, so it was only 25m away from Leeha. If he shot in his current position, Leeha could hit it without using any skill.

However, there were two problems.

‘What if it didn’t die in one shot? I would die. What if it died in one shot? I would still die.’

Hijuit-ka would run over Leeha and cut off his head.

Or, if he went down, he would get attacked by the kobold guards and die. Besides the ones that Hijuit-Ka brought, some have respawned and appeared.

It was impossible to shoot unless there was a secure escape route available.

‘Don’t come, don’t come….’

Leeha suppressed his nervousness.

Naturally, he laid himself on the branch of a large tree and held his breath. Slowly. And naturally, like a bird perched on a branch.

“Kaa- never come again, human.”

Hijuit-Ka ordered the guards to search and walked towards Tikal again.

“Y-you bastard! Are you the Chieftain? If I die! Oh! Do you know who I am? The moment I die!”


–Thwack.

“Kuwaaaaa!!”

Hijuit-Ka slashed its Eonwoldo and cut off Tikal’s ankle.

“I-I will take my revenge on you. Chieftain! And you marksman bastard! I will bring all my guild members and I’ll come back to this village–!”

Slash. Slash.

“Waaaaaa!!”

Hijuit-Ka mechanically shredded Tikal, without smiling or having fun.

“Heuu, uh…”

“Ka– I won’t let you come again.”

“Heu, uuh…No! I understand! I won’t come, I won’t come again!”

“Humans do not keep their promises, kaa-.”

Hijuit-Ka slashed its Eonwoldo downwards and Tikal’s torso, with only the upper body remaining, got split in half.

At the same time, two shiny items fell under him.

‘Dead. They’re all dead.’

Tikal included.

All Rising Sun guild members died. Four were killed by Leeha, and six were killed by the hands of Hijuit-Ka. Who was left in the village now?

‘If other people were hunting, how many people are left, including me? Now, I need to find a way to live.’

No. He shook his head.

I have to take the chance. There were clear limits to hiding. Most of all, it was a waste to miss this quest. What if he failed? Would there be another chance besides this one?

‘More and more kobolds were respawning. The chieftain? If he kills all the humans, will it go back to the cave again?’


The longer Leeha hid, the more unfavorable his conditions were. Sniping and running away….

“Ka- find the hiding human, kaa.”

Fortunately, hijuit-Ka did not enter the cave. Of course, it was bittersweet that the kobold guards were scattered all over the place in their search.

‘No, that would be better. When they scatter, there would be room for me to escape.’

… Unless I get caught.

While Leeha was nervously looking for a chance, hijuit-Ka looked intently at the entrance of the village.

‘That… It does not have a monster’s range. It should be regarded as humanoid NPC level.’

It also had a scary intelligence.

Leeha suddenly got goosebumps. In the second Human-Demon war, there were thousands or tens of thousands of those guys?

It was a terrifying sight to imagine, that there were thousands or tens of thousands of Hijuit-Ka’s that were more than level 50.

“Kung, Kung Kung.”

‘Haaa.’

Leeha’s body became rigid. Hijuit-Ka suddenly started sniffing. Smell? Did he smell me?

“Kaa- human… There is.”

Hijuit-Ka started walking towards the tree. Leeha chewed his lips.

‘Should I let him get closer?’ Leeha knew that it was heading towards the tree, however, it still did not know Leeha’s exact location?

‘Should I shoot it when it comes? Will I get another chance? Should I shoot now?

Calm down, Ha Leeha. Calmness is flexibility. And flexibility is agility. You know that. Calm down.’

There was no second chance. That was for sure.

The only thing the Rising Sun guild members were of any help to Leeha was to confirm

Hijuit-Ka’s attack pattern and his agile movement.

‘If I miss, it’ll be over. That movement, that speed. I would not get a second chance.’

They will never give him the time to reload.

“Kaa- human smell. Kaa!”

They were 8m away. Now, if one looked closely, they would see Leeha’s body, covered by leaves.

Leeha lifted his musket as slowly as possible. Even just the rustling of leaves would alert Hijuit-Ka. Then, even his one chance would be blown away.

‘Phew, focus. The closer it is, the higher the accuracy will be. That is a good sign. I should think positively.’

Leeha ignored the sweat in his hands.

Hijuit-Ka took a couple of steps. He was only 6m away now.

‘Come on, one more step. I’ll get you, no matter what.’

Just as he was about to take another step, hijuit-Ka stopped.

It was still 6m away.

‘Eek-.’

Leeha barely resisted the urge of pulling the trigger. His finger wriggled wanting to shoot Hijuit-Ka regardless of his will.

However, the will of the sniper blocked his instinct.

If he was a bad marksman, he would have already pulled the trigger.

“Kaa-! All guards assemble! Humans, there are humans!”

Kaa- Kaa-!

Hijuit-Ka gathered all the kobold guards that were searching.

‘Was I caught? Should I shoot now? I will shoot when I feel like it.’

“To the entrance! Kaa- to the entrance!”

Hijuit-Ka and the kobold guards began to run.

‘Huh…? What?’

Where? To the entrance? Why? Who was it?

He couldn’t figure out what happened. Did another party come? At such a good time? However, Leeha stopped thinking about it anymore.

He didn’t know the current situation.

What was important was that his life had been extended and that it was possible to secure an escape route.

As soon as the kobolds moved, Leeha immediately went down the tree and took out his map.

“Ma-chan! Ma-chan! I got it!”

“Ah, hana-chan! I told you to do it in moderation.”

It was Matsushige and Mame Hana who were hanging around the entrance to the village of the Hijuit Kobold tribe.

“But I have a question! This is the first time we see the Chieftain…. By the way, will it be strong?”

“Didn’t you see the Rising Sun die? Anyway, run. If we get caught, it will be hard for us to hold on.”

“Okay, sorry.”

Mame Hana puffed up her cheeks and acted cutely. Matsushige had always seen Mame Hana who always tried to cover up her mistakes with cuteness, but every time he saw her, he had no choice but to like it.

‘By the way, that guy named Ha Leeha summoned the real chieftain… As Otto-san said, he’s not a normal guy.’

A kobold patrol was caught and tickled… he went through a lot of trouble, and summoned the real Chieftain.

‘Did he notice a small hint?’

The corpses of kobolds were scattered all over the village, and as a result, he understood…

Matsushige could only vaguely understand the words of the kobold patrol. However, something like this had never happened before.

A few times, their guild’s high-levels, who knew the chieftain’s existence, came and tried everything they could do to catch the chieftain. There was also a time when they annihilated the entire kobold village.

Still, the chieftain did not move.

‘It must have been some kind of chain quest.’

Matsushige thought and moved quickly. Suddenly, the chieftain came close.

“Kaa- Catch them!”

“Humans! Humans! Kaa-!”

“Haa, haa. Ma-chan! My stamina, haa…”

“Hmm. already?”

As Mame Hana stood on her knees, matsushige scratched his chin.

They still had to run quite a bit, to get out of the village, but her stamina was already low. It was a pity but it couldn’t be helped.

“Firewall.”

Matsushige looked back and tore a scroll. Boom, an explosion of mana occurred. A wall of fire rose from the ground under which the kobold guards were running.

“Kaa! Kaaaat!”

“Hot- Kaa-!”

“That’s amazing, ma-chan!”

“Stop talking and recover your stamina.”

“Yes, yes!”

Matsushige looked at the kobolds in front of Mame Hana. The weak ones would die, but there were far more unwavering ones. The chieftain wasn’t even there at all.

‘Would we be able to kill the chieftain?’

Matsushige thought seriously.

After examining the situation, it was clear that Ha Leeha came to hunt the Chieftain. Matsushige didn’t know why.

What if Matsushige himself caught the chieftain here?

It could ruin Leeha’s plans.

As the guild master said, that musketeer was highly likely to be potential harm for the guild.

No, it was already close to real risk. But the problem was…

‘I came wearing low-level items to deceive Ha Leeha.’

There were a lot of scrolls, so he might be able to fight. The risk they needed to take was too high.

‘It would be nice if they could go to the warehouse…’

It was possible to return to the village using a scroll, but they had to walk to get back here. It would take quite some time.

(To be continued…)
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‘It would be better not dealing with it at all.’

Matsushige made a decision. He would leave the Chieftain and run away and would come back to hunt it when wearing the right items.

Meanwhile, Ha Leeha would die, which would have the effect of slowing down his growth and his potential threat.

“Hana-chan! Are you ready?”

“Yes, yes!”

“Kaa-! Humans, kaa!”

“Stop! Kaa!”

Matsushige and Mame Hana started running again.

It had already been confirmed that space magic such as ‘Teleport’ could not be used inside the village.

“Run, run!”

The entrance will be coming soon.

While the kobold guards followed, matsushige tore another scroll.

“Haa–, ma-chan! Ma-chan!”

“You can do it, hana-chan! ‘Swamp’!”

In an instant, the ground that the kobolds were running on turned into a swamp. The hard ground instantly began to suck the kobolds in.

“Kuwat–! Kaa, my foot, my foot is missing kaa-.”

“Ka- human mage…”

Unlike the kobold guards who were bewildered in the gurgling land, hijuit-Ka stood calmly.


“They are here, hana-chan! Take my hand!”

“Ma-chan!”

Matsushige and Mame Hana ran with all their might.

Finally, they were at the entrance of the village. A newly spawned kobold guard looked at Matsushige, but he didn’t care.

“We’re here!”

“Let’s go! Re-”

Matsushige ripped a scroll while holding Mame Hana’s hand. In the distance, they could feel the eyes of Hijuit-Ka, who was still in the swamp and was staring at them.

“-turn!”

Did they see it wrong? At the last moment, hijuit-Ka’s head seemed to shake.

‘I don’t have time, I need to hurry!’

Leeha opened his map.

Although the lines were hazy, Leeha’s eye quickly read the map.

‘There was no hill to climb straight up. However, if that was the case…’

Leeha took his eyes off the map and looked to the west. There was a watchtower. There were no archers.

‘Is there only one solution? If I make one shot, I will get caught.’

But it can’t be helped. It was a one-shot fight anyway. He would not achieve anything if he thought about failure.

‘Failure is the result of trying, there would be no success nor failure if I don’t try. I can only trust in myself.’

Leeha immediately climbed the watchtower.

“Phew.”

His musket was already reloaded. Leeha held his musket on the fence of the watchtower and looked around.


‘They were running towards the entrance-‘

“Huh?”

Hwaaak一!

Leeha found a blazing fire after a moment. What? Is there a mage there?

The screams of kobolds could be heard from afar. Behind them, there was Hijuit-Ka, who was casually standing while holding his Eonwoldo.

‘Alright. It would be better if more of them died!’

Leeha aimed his musket directly at Hijuit-Ka.

From now on, he would not tolerate a single mistake or calculation error. Leeha immediately started to prepare to snipe.

The first thing one needs to consider is the wind.

How to check the wind?

‘The smoke from the wall of fire.’

The black smoke rose vertically.

‘Judging from the smoke, there was hardly any wind. It was very weak. lm/s, south-southwest…. At this distance, there is no difference in trajectory.’

It was because there was no wind. Anyway, he was glad. Leeha measured the distance immediately.

The wall of fire was extinguished.

A few kobold guards started running.

When they were running down the road, Leeha was not able to see Hijuit-Ka, however, as they kept moving towards the entrance, he was able to see it at a single glance.

‘Users… three? Two people? Looking at the reflected light, there is only one tanker or a melee dealer. The other must be a mage.’

The village was very spacious.

The distance between Leeha and the group near the entrance would be 150m, at most, from the center to the iron mines and the watchtower.


‘The further they go, the more difficult it will be. I’ve never shot at this distance before.’

Hijuit-Ka’s height meant that it was easy to identify as a target, but there was not much difference in the difficulty of hitting the target.

As the distance increases, the difficulty increases exponentially.

158m, 166m, 172m.

The kobolds kept running.

‘Stop, stop!’

When Leeha screamed inwardly, the distance between the users and the kobolds grew closer.

At the same time, the kobolds stopped.

As if they couldn’t move anymore.

‘What? Is it just a feeling? Did they get shorter?’

Even Hijuit-Ka’s head, which he had been aiming at for a while, went down a little. He couldn’t figure out exactly what was going on over there.

He instinctively realized that this was his only chance.

The kobolds stopped.

The users will soon reach outside the entrance. After the users run away, the kobolds would come back to Leeha’s location.

This was the last time that they would stop, and the streets had opened up.

Leeha inhaled.

‘One shot. It’s one shot for Hijuit-Ka’s head.’

The distance was 180m. There will be some errors, but it would be between 179.8m and 180.2m.

‘It’s okay. It’s okay… I can see Hijuit-Ka well. The distance where the cameraman was in Tiwi Canyon was 230m. This is much shorter.’

However, the images recorded could be zoomed in and out.

Except for the first few seconds, most of what Leeha saw was also zoomed in, so he couldn’t compare directly.

Still, he had to think that way….to boost his confidence.

‘Huuuuu……’

The sense of realization of the scale and the line of sight matched the scope. He was so focused that he could feel his brain beating.

‘Haaaa……’

When it got to the point where it felt like a laser pointer was aimed at Hijuit-Ka’s forehead,

it also entered Leeha’s field of view. The users leaving the village.

However, even though he caught it in his field of view, Leeha could not recognize them. Because all of his focus was on Hijuit-Ka, and it kept him from seeing other things.

‘Calm Mind.’

When it felt like even the pulse had stopped due to slow breathing, Leeha pulled his index finger.

Taaang–!

By the time the gunshot rang out in the Hijuit Kobold Tribe, the users had already disappeared.

Leeha did not remove his eyes from the scope for a long time.

He just quietly and carefully raised his left arm into the air.

Twak.

He clenched his fist.

『You leveled up.』 『You leveled up.』 『You leveled up.』

『You leveled up.』

“Phew…”

He didn’t think that he would have wanted to scream more than usual.

He leveled up four times. He reached level 31. He completed the quest clearing conditions. He felt like nothing could go wrong.

A sensation ran from the tip of his fingers to the tip of his toes.

Only the feeling of having achieved his goal was running wild in Leeha’s body.

『Hijuit Chieftain, hijuit-Ka, has fallen.』

『All kobolds in the Hijuit tribe are weakened for 1 hour.』

“50%?”

The kobolds that the Rising Sun guild members had killed have not yet respawned. The kobold guards who escorted Hijuit-Ka were cleaned up by the unknown users.

In that situation, the rest of the kobolds were 50% weaker?

“Really… I should thank those who ran away. Hehehe.”

Leeha couldn’t hide his joy.

The idea that he had to hunt Hijuit-Ka and run away immediately changed.

‘Let’s pick up the items!!’

Besides, it was not just one or two items. The items were dropped by the Rising Sun guild members. The sundries of the dead kobold guards. The item that Hijuit-Ka dropped. And… and…

‘Warehouse!!’

The kobold warehouse in the iron mines. Of course, there were a few adult kobolds as it was a breeding area, but it did not matter.

For an hour, they could only use half of their strength.

Besides, the present Leeha was invincible.

『Achievement: Hunted the Surviving Deputy Commander of the Second Human-Demon War(C-)』

Congratulations! You have defeated the one who persistently harassed the Human Allied Forces in the Second Human-Demon war! However, it was only a deputy commander. There are still threats left, so you have to be vigilant. We need to stop the third tragedy.

Reward: Strength +3, agility +3, intelligence +3

『Achievement: One shot, one kill – Kobold Chieftain (C-)』

Congratulations! You Insta killed the Kobold Chieftain in one blow! You, who will be the light of the murky Middle Earth, we ask that you continue to work hard for humanity in the future. Before that time comes, I hope you get a little stronger…

Reward: Strength +2, agility +9, intelligence +2

You are the third registrant of the achievement 『One shot, one kill – Kobold Chieftain』. The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied. Effect: Strength +4, agility +18, intelligence +4

“Oh…?”

Two achievements and one hall of fame in one shot. However, the description caught Leeha’s eye, which was slightly different from usual.

“Why are you still here? Make way for the next generation~”

The increase in stats also changed compared to the equal distribution of stats before. Hijuit-Ka was an agile monster, is that the reason it focused on agility?

Leeha, who wanted to dance out of joy, was very calm when he judged and analyzed.

‘From here on out, it would be difficult to one-shot even when using a normal skill… It would even be difficult for high-level users. If they were tankers, it would be almost impossible to one-shot them.’

He felt the more serious the description was, the more effect it carried.

“Hehehe…”

Anyway, it was a good thing. If he was a normal level 27 or lower user, it might not have been possible. However, there was a reason it was possible.

‘The Rising Sun guys really helped.’

Leeha opened the notification window and looked at the past messages.

『Achievement: Righteous Kill (D)』 Congratulations! You killed a criminal with a chaotic score of 100 or higher! Is murder justified? Of course! From now on, I would like to ask for peace in Middle Earth. Reward: 8 Stat points

『Achievement: PVP Expert(C+)』

Congratulations! You have won a match against a user with a difference of more than 20 levels! I hope you continue to prove you didn’t win by luck. Because there are many heroes and rulers as well as experts in the world of PVP!

Reward: 12 Stat points

“Hehehe… Thanks for these.”

The achievements he got when he killed the Rising Sun guild member, Kuschner!

These stat points have already been used, when he first hid in the tree.

In other words, while Tikal, Petal Kim, and the other Rising Sun guild members were still alive, all 20 points were invested in agility.

‘His stats were originally close to level 50, but after the 20 points were added… It may have exceeded level 50 stats.’

Besides, he had a title.

Leeha was currently using the title ‘Fearless’ which increased his attack power by 10% by default.

If there were more than 20 levels of difference, Leeha’s attack power would be increased by a whopping 30%.

(To be continued…)
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“Hehe hehe… hehe, thank you, rising Sun. Thank you, Petal Kim and thank you, hijuit-Ka!”

Leeha laughed as he reloaded his musket.

The kobolds have been weakened for 1 hour, so he did not have time to waste.

“Ka– human…!”

Taaang—!

“Sorry, I don’t have time to play with you.”

As soon as Leeha came down from the watchtower, he shot the kobold in front of him. One shot, one kill.

A few kobold guards hung around, two approached him, and a bayonet charge killed both of them.

『You leveled up.』

“Hey hey. Thank you.”

Leeha giggled and received the white light that wrapped around his body. His level did not rise just because he caught the kobolds.

He must have gained up to 90% experience when he killed Hijuit-Ka.

With this, he reached level 32.

‘Just in case, I will increase my stats again.’

From level 27 to 32, his stat points have accumulated quite a bit. Leeha wanted to be vigilant, in case the situation suddenly changed.

If a battle suddenly occurred, he might end up in a situation where he would not be able to raise his stats. What Leeha hated the most was ‘saving something only for it to turn into shit’.

‘Character Window’

Name: Ha Leeha/ Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 32 (1%)


Title: Fearless / Achievements: 18

HP: 1,700 / MP: 380 Stat: Strength: 49(+34)

Agility: 297(+135)

Intelligence: 55(+40)

Constitution: 74(+26)

Mind: 27(+17)

Remaining stat points: 35

‘There are 18 achievements. Already…”

Usually, there were between 3 and 4 achievements at level 30, and as a result, getting 6-7 was already quite good.

It would be different if there was a strong helper like Ram Hwayeon, but in general, users have less than five achievements.

In other words, Leeha had achieved three times more achievements than normal.

‘Where should I put it this time? No, I have already decided.’

As he battled, he realized a few more facts.

In many situations, as a solo player, constitution was the most important thing.

He had a few skills, but it was good to have a lot of MP to use Bayonet Charge and Calm Mind.

Not to mention strength. It was always good if it was high.

However, sniping made it clear.

‘Musketeers are not ‘ranged dealers’… They were dealers that were not dealers. One had to break out of this contradiction… the description of the item written on the musket, maybe it was the essence of a musketeer.

‘One life in one shot. Whether it was the enemy’s or oneself.’

Maximizing one’s attack power.


Leeha felt the same thing while hunting Hijuit-Ka.

If it had not been for his agility-oriented point distribution, it would have been difficult to snipe it.

Even if he somehow managed to hit, hijuit-Ka would not have died.

Leeha put 30 points into his agility, leaving only 5 points left.

Stats: Strength: 49(+34)

Agility: 327(+135)

Intelligence: 55(+40)

Constitution: 74(+26)

Mind: 21 (+11)

Remaining stat points: 5 ‘Agility 327…’

With simple calculations, his agility stat was equivalent to level 63.

“Hehe…… Hehehe……. Just wait, Kijung-ah. Your big hyung will surely……”

Leeha had a strange smile. He felt happy and was burning with a fighting spirit at the same time. If he continued to grow like this, he would be able to somehow keep up, at least in terms of attack power.

‘Agromni Igor…. I will catch up to you quickly.’

Leeha’s current target was the third-ranked Giant Berserker.

If anyone heard it, they would say it was bullshit when it was coming from a level 32 user, but Leeha didn’t think so.

All he needed was attack power that could kill in ‘one shot’.

Of course, there was a huge practical difficulty, but… ‘Okay, now… I need to get the items first.’

Leeha first went to the place where Hijuit-Ka annihilated the Rising Sun guild members.

A total of six people died, but there were four shining things on the ground. Since they were chaotic users, Leeha thought they would drop more, but there wasn’t that much.


‘Hmm, I don’t need the plate boots. Is this what they got from bullying low-mid-level users?’ Pair of metal boots, a pair of gloves, and one helmet.

In general, Leeha was not able to equip the items.

All three were rated ‘Excellent’. It could be said that it was good compared to the Crude or Normal rated items, but it was not enough for Leeha’s hardships.

‘Still, if I sell it, I could make some money, but…… What else did they have?’ While grumbling, he took care of everything he could take care of. After cleaning the floor up of items, Leeha headed toward Tikal’s corpse.

‘He looked like someone who spent a lot. How high was his level?’ Hijuit-Ka cut Tikal into two like he was slaughtering some kind of cattle, so the suffering and trauma suffered by Tikal should have been enormous.

‘Will he connect again? Normally, if someone were to suffer like that, they would be traumatized.’

But Leeha did not feel sorry for him.

‘He brought it to himself. It was just a game, something one plays to have fun, why did he have to be greedy at other people’s items? He didn’t even have to do that. He looked like a rich man, doing well in his company.’

He was not aware of Tikal’s evil deeds, however, his attitude towards his guild members was enough for Leeha to guess. Of course, Leeha only complained for a while. It was now his time to be happy.

‘Well, that’s it! His armor and weapon looked expensive too… Shall we see what it is?’

Leeha picked up the items that seemed to be the remnants of the disappeared Tikal. Leeha’s stiff face gradually began to loosen.

‘Ring…! As expected! He paid the price for tormenting others!’

Leeha was excited about the accessory he saw for the first time.

He opened the description window.

『Ring of Special Protection』

Defense: 20

Effect: Constitution +7

Skill – Force Barrier could be used.

Requirement: Strength 30 or higher

Intelligence 30 or higher

Constitution 70 or higher Description: A ring that protects its wearer. Just putting it on one’s finger puts one’s mind at ease. An item made of high-class jade, which was said to drive away demons, has the power to repel enemies.

“Heol… Special grade item. Besides, this performance…?”

‘An item that gives +7 to constitution, I remember it well…’

I saw it the day I first checked the prices of items in Middle Earth. Constitution +7 ring. 5.5 million in cash.

How crazy was that? I thought that a constitution +7 item would not be worth much, but the price was high.

‘What was even more surprising was that it was sold, so maybe the person who bought it was…?’

Leeha looked at Tikal’s corpse, which was split into two and turned gray.

‘No. There’s no way this is the only ring with +7 constitution.’

After all, it didn’t matter to Leeha. The fact was that he now has a +7 constitution ring worth 5.5 million won on his finger!

What more, it had a special ability attached to it.

“Hehe, I’m going crazy, really… What is the skill?”

『Advanced Force Barrier』

Description: A virtual barrier created by mana. Unless there was an overwhelming strength that surpassed the Force Barrier, nothing could break through it (this skill cannot be leveled or raised).

Effect: All enemies within a three-meter radius of the caster will not be able to approach and all attacks are absorbed for 5 minutes.

Mana: 100

Cooldown: 24 hours

‘Heol… !’

The first thing that caught Leeha’s eyes was the rating. Advanced…!

‘Advanced? It’s attached to an item?’

After beginner came intermediate.

After intermediate was advanced. Although the rank or level of the skill could not be raised, it was a high-end skill that does not need to be raised to reach the advanced level.

‘This is great! Besides, if it was as described… doesn’t it mean that I would be invincible for 5 minutes when used? And no enemies would be allowed to come near within a 3m radius. It also absorbs all attacks.’

‘It’s like having another life!’

There was another clause that said, it could not be broken through unless the force was overwhelmingly strong. It was an advanced skill. Doesn’t that mean that one needed to be higher leveled to breakthrough?

If that was the case, then the attack should be at the master level.

If it was a master level, one needed to be a ranker at level 200 or higher. It was too far away from Leeha.

‘Crazy… Tikal had something like this and he couldn’t use it?’

Come to think of it, it looked like he was muttering something before he died….’

“Ho, really. It is the definition of ‘to cast a pearl before swine’.”

If Leeha was in Tikal’s position, he would have tried to induce Hijuit-Ka’s attack, used the skill after learning its attack pattern with a few swings, and then tried to hunt it with his guild members.

Of course, if it was the normal Tikal, that might have been the case. However, someone put a hole in his thighs and made him roll on the floor, which prevented him from even thinking about such a thing.

Leeha just clicked his tongue without even realizing his past atrocities(?).

“Well, I’ve taken care of all the humans…”

After picking up all the items, Leeha moved to where Hijuit-Ka’s corpse was.

Both the body and blood had already turned red. Leeha knew for sure it died.

It had a wound on its temple that was still burning.

It was clear that the wound had killed the Chieftain.

‘But why did this bastard suddenly stop?’

It was also true that Leeha was able to hit Hijuit-Ka because of his stiff movement.

If its fast movements had continued, it would have been difficult to time it properly.

Hijuit-Ka suddenly stopped moving while chasing the users. Then, what happened?

‘Did the mage cast ice magic?’

After the effect of the swamp ended, the ground had hardened again, so Leeha did not know. He just approached Hijuit-Ka’s corpse.

“Hmm…?”

『 Kobold Chieftain’s Special Eonwoldo 』 Attack: 105〜120 Classification: Melee, two-handed pole weapon

Effect: Agility + 6

Critical rate +15%

Requirements: Strength: 150 or higher

Agility: 110 or higher

Description: The Eonwoldo used by the deputy commander of monsters in the Second Human-Demon War. It is still sharp as it contains the essence of kobold artisans. It was recorded that the blood of the humans cut by the blade could form a river.

Additional Effect: Set effect 3: Critical Rate +10%

Set effect 4: Critical Rate +15%

Set effect 5: Critical Rate +20%

(To be continued…)
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“Weapon… Special Grade…!”

Leeha did not even notice the creepy description. It was a bit disappointing that it was a two-handed pole.

This would have been great if it was a one-handed sword, which is what most users use! It would have been good even if it was a two-handed sword… No, it would still be popular if it was a pole.

Many jobs used poles. It was enough for them to use a two-handed pole, they were dealers, not tankers.

Anyway, its value is worth more than its name.

‘And it gives +6 to agility. Hehe, it also increases the critical chance. This will be worth quite a bit of money.’

Leeha stuck out his tongue at the weapon’s performance.

He knew that a musket would not come out because it was not an item related to the monster, but seeing the item’s performance, Leeha couldn’t help but be sad.

It would have been nice if a musket with a similar effect came out.

‘I want to use it but… it needs 150 strength and 110 agility… I couldn’t, even if I wanted to.’

His agility was sufficient, but his strength was not enough.

Leeha quickly calculated the minimum level while looking at the requirements. What would be the minimum level if one needs 150 strength and 110 agility?

‘If you invest purely into those two stats, one could use it at level 48.’

If one only looked at the item and prepared from level 1, one could use it at level 48. With one or two achievements, it may be possible at level 45 or 46.

‘But its attack power is that of a monster’s?’

How fast was the attack speed of melee weapons? Two-handed weapons were a bit slower than one-handed weapons, but they were still fast.

At least 20 attacks per minute.

‘If one has a 112 attack power and can attack 20 times per minute… the cumulative attack would be 2,240’


It was close to 10 times the attack power of a musket for 1 minute.

‘This is crazy…. How much would it cost if I sold it… ‘

Hesitatingly, Leeha looked at the next item.

“Kuhuhuhu, huehuehue.”

It was a necklace with small teeth stuck in it.

『Special Kobold Chieftain’s Bone Necklace』

Defense: 30

Effect: Strength +3

Agility +4

Critical Rate +10%

Requirements: Strength: 40 or higher

Agility: 50 or higher

Description: A necklace made of bones that is protected by mana. Let’s not think about what kind of creature the bones belonged to. The original owner of this item is the deputy commander of the second Human-Demon War.

Additional Effect: Set effect 3: Fire Resistance +10%

Set effect 4: Fire Resistance +15%

Set effect 5: Fire Resistance +20%

“It’s special again!”

Leeha got goosebumps.

It was indeed a Chieftain! Truly a survivor of the second Human-Demon war!

Leeha wanted to kiss Hijuit-Ka’s body. How many items did he pick up that could easily exceed 5 million won in value?


‘It’s totally like… winning the lottery!

‘It’s regrettable that I only won second place instead of first place.’

Still, it was something. In addition, the necklace could be worn by Leeha. A necklace with ten bones the size of a human finger. It didn’t look like it but… ‘But this ability is really… ‘

It was perfect for Leeha.

It gives a little bit of agility and strength. And even increases the critical chance!

When catching normal monsters, there were times that it was impossible to target a weak point, so it would be perfect for such occasions.

‘It’s a pity that I could not enjoy the set effect.’

Leeha licked his lips and wore the necklace.

After all, there he only had two items from the Chieftain’s set, but he could not equip the Eonwoldo, and when one equipped 5 items, the critical rate would increase by 20%.

Looking at the necklace and the Eonwoldo, it would increase the critical chance by 10% per item.

‘If I collect five sets of the Chieftain’s set, wouldn’t it increase the critical rate by 70%? Doesn’t that mean that almost every attack would be a critical hit?’

If assassins or melee dealers use it, they would deal explosive damage.

Leeha walked wearing the necklace made of bones. He went to the iron mines, which was the warehouse of the kobolds

‘What’s in here…?”

It was said that it was the place where the raid team wanted to attack. Most of the kobolds were dead, so there weren’t many, but Leeha expected the loot to remain.

“Ka- Kaa-!”

“Hmm, it’s pretty dark. Bayonet Charge.”

“Ka! Ka- ak!”

Leeha grabbed his musket and killed the approaching kobold. With the kobold getting weakened by 50%, it could not even react and was pierced in the stomach by the mana bayonet.

Even Leeha, as the one assaulting, was more concerned by the structure of the cave more than the kobolds…


Small torches were intermittently hung along the winding path.

‘As expected, there were not many kobolds. They probably went out with Hijuit-Ka.’

The more he went along the path, the more he felt fear of the terrain.

‘Imagine if three kobolds came out of the corner at the same time… ‘

Leeha felt that there were many restrictions on a musketeer choosing a battlefield.

Now that the kobolds were weakened and their numbers were few, he could use bayonet charge to deal with them, however, what would have happened normally?

What if there were several kobolds in this narrow burrow?

‘It could have been dangerous. And my vision is limited.’

Because it was a winding path. He was in a maze-like cave that turned every 5 to 7 meters right now.

It was a bit of a disadvantage for ranged dealers, but for a musketeer, it was hell.

‘I’m sure there will be a dungeon exploration like this later… I’ll have to research a way.’

After going a little further, he found the warehouse.

“As expected. That’s why high-levels did not come.”

No, there might have been other rewards in the form of a quest, but all Leeha could see were a pile of herbs, smoked meat, and salt.

It was the same everywhere he looked.

‘These are all sundries… tsk. I’ll just collect them and go back.’

There were only sundries, but it was not like Leeha to just leave them behind. It was because, even if he did not sell the good equipment and only sold the sundries, it would be enough to pay for the price of gunpowder and bullets.

“Okay, I got it all.”

Leeha reloaded his musket. There were still 20 minutes until the kobolds got stronger again. It was enough time to deal with the kobolds that would be a threat later on and get out of the village.

“Haa, haa, haa.”

Leeha ran continuously.

He could see the city wall and the spire, from a distance. Right, how many days had it been? It had been no less than three days, but he did not expect how welcoming the capital, aelstock, looked.

‘I don’t know if Matsushige and Mame Hana were able to get down safely.’

Leeha thought of the two Japanese who were higher level than himself.

The two of them went down Sheymoore Mountain and returned to town, but were nowhere to be seen. It was difficult to know whether or not they were online because they were not added as his friends.

‘Now then… Should I do what I originally planned?’

Leeha checked the quest that had been delayed because of the things that happened. The real reason he had come to the capital.

『Holy Grill Capital Branch Opening』

Description: The food is ready. The smell of meat from Candle Castle is the best on the continent. This is Madame Lu’s last request, to open the second branch of Holy Grill in Aelstock, the capital city.

‘You could deliver it to my younger sister who lives in the capital together with the letter inside. It won’t be easy. But we trust Ha Leeha-ssi.’

Description: Deliver the lunchbox and letter to Madame Chu in Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom, within a month (13 days).

Success reward: Invitation to the opening ceremony of the second branch of Holy Grill.

Condition for Failure: Exceeded deadline, lost the lunchbox.

Penalty for failure: Intimacy with Madame Lu -50%, intimacy to all NPCs in Candle Castle -40%,

Intimacy to all NPCs in Aelstock -30%

‘There are only 13 days left?’

He still hasn’t decided.

Would he give up the quest and just eat the lunchbox? Leeha still hasn’t decided, although he thought that he would have organized his thoughts and made a decision by the time he arrived at the capital. Or would he give the lunchbox to Madame Ju?

‘Should I sell it or not?’

If I was going to sell it, I should start working on it now. He should be able to get the best price if he put it up on the auction site in advance and induced enough competition.

‘A lunchbox that could permanently increase strength by 5, agility by 10, and constitution by 5… ‘

Kijung told Leeha that he should sell it, and… that selling was the best thing to do because eating it would be inefficient. From the beginning, Kijung didn’t have the slightest interest in clearing the quest… so what should he do?

‘It’s only natural that the auction participant would be excited if they saw the lunchbox for sale.’

Because the lunchbox could raise a lot of stats. In terms of value, Leeha estimated that it would be equal to one achievement of Grade A or A+, or a ‘Hall of Fame’ achievement of Grade B+.

‘I’m a musketeer that does not have anything or anyone, I am a marksman, so I was able to collect these strange achievements because other people didn’t.’

Many people might not even know that there was such a thing as the Hall of Fame.

An additional effect could only be given to the first three players for each achievement. The cumulative number of subscribers was 100 million, and the trend continued to grow. It was not something that ordinary users of ordinary jobs could encounter.

‘If only the reward for bringing it to Madame Ju is clear, I could decide more quickly.’

Invitation to the opening ceremony.

What would Leeha do with that? If it was something like giving away 10% of monthly sales at the second Holy Grill branch, Leeha would be able to calculate.

‘Of course, this was what Middle Earth was aiming for.’

User concerns and confusion… Leeha sometimes wondered if Middle Earth was conducting a wide-scale psychological experiment on users.

‘Anyway, it doesn’t feel great.’

Leeha smiled as he entered the western gate of Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom.

“We’re going to hunt for bats and spiders! We’re bringing an expert!”

“Return scroll on sale. It’s cheap, so bring one!”

The front of the gate was always bustling. Leeha heard an attention-grabbing cry.

“Who will go hunting for kobolds! There would be no distractions on Sheymoore Mountain, and the kobolds are weak!”

“They can get weak?”

“I don’t know either. I got a call from a friend and they said it looked like a kobold patch. I’m level 32 and I’m going to the top of Sheymoore Mountain to hunt.”

“Heo… Isn’t that where the kobold village is? Don’t people usually go there at level 40?”

“That’s true. But right now, I got a call and they said that it looked like there was a commotion. Are you going too? What level are you?”

“33.”

“Heol, I’m 31. Let’s form a party. We have to go before people gather.”

Leeha suppressed his laughter, which was about to burst when he heard the conversation between the warrior-looking user and the crossbowman.

‘Right, come to think of it, there were some users who were coming up when I was going down the mountain.’

The low-level users went to the village after hearing the rumor. The kobolds in the village weakened by 50% for 1 hour due to the death of Hijuit-Ka, so they must have been easy to hunt.

But it was only within an hour after Hijuit-Ka’s death.

When had Leeha arrived at Aelstock?

‘By the time I came down from Sheymoore Mountain, the kobolds must have returned to their original state.’

Leeha looked at the two users running hard.

He wished for them to not die in vain.

“Phew, I think this place is unique in the capital.”

Deep in the capital, aelstock, a building stood that looked shabbier than the houses in Sheymoore Village. Leeha stood in front of the Brown Bess Musket Academy.

‘Now, if I just go in and complete the quest, the hidden quest-’

Kachik, baaang—!

Aaaaaah!

A sudden noise entered Leeha’s ear. Gunshot? In the academy?

“Uwaaaak! Y-you! Do you think you’re going to be okay with this?”

“Hey, run, run!” The door to the academy opened and two men ran out.

“I-I-if you make a ruckus in the capital-!”

Baaang—!

Another gunshot rang out.

“Just sell, Browless! Do you still think you’re a hero?! You’re already debtor trash! If you don’t pay back quickly-.”

Baaaang—-!

“Kuwaaak!”

“Boss! Boss!”

The bulky man started to move, supporting the bald man. Blood was dripping from the thighs of the bald man called ‘Boss’.

‘Fast… !’

Of course, Leeha wasn’t admiring the speed at which the bald man ran away.

It was between the three gunshots that Leeha was shocked, to the point that he was not able to move from his spot.

It only took a little over 20 seconds for the three gunshots to be shot.

‘One shot took less than 10 seconds? How many people did he shoot with?’

Leeha looked at the man standing at the front door of the Brown Bess Musket Academy.

A long-brimmed fedora hat that covered the face, but with the blue feather on top of the hat, Leeha could tell who it was.

“You’re already here, rookie.”

Browless’s rapid-fire was really fast.

In his hand was a black musket that seemed to absorb even the sunlight.

(To be continued…)
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‘Extreme Rapid fire… !’

Leeha looked at Browless with a bewildered expression. Of course, he knew that Browless could do it. He just thought, ‘there are two muskets that were already loaded, maybe three’. Of course, Browless easily surpassed Leeha’s expectation.

‘Does this make sense? Did he reload it himself and shoot it?’

He couldn’t believe it.

Three shots were fired in just over 20 seconds.

It took about 7 seconds or so to fire one shot, which was unbelievable, even when he witnessed it himself.

‘I can’t shoot my musket that fast!’

What’s more, for a full-length musket? Leeha knew it well, because he had handled modern guns before.

A single shot of bolt action without a bullet box took more or less 3 seconds if a skilled person handled it.

If one was a first-time user of bolt action, it would take about 5 seconds.

In other words, what about the reload speed that Browless showed?

It could be said that the speed of a bolt action was achieved using a musket.

‘Are you saying that his hands had the ability to go beyond the history of firearms? How the hell did he do it?’

For Leeha, it was revolutionary itself.

“Were you able to see it clearly? Come in.”

Browless fixed the position of his hat and entered the academy.

Leeha, who was looking at the director’s back, felt infinite respect.

‘Awesome! If only I could make that quick fire skill my own… that would be great!’


In Middle Earth, which embodied medieval fantasy, what kind of musket, which was the strongest among weapons in terms of attack, could be shot every 5 seconds?

‘It’s not a revolution, it’s a scam. Magic or whatever, it would not matter.’

It made one wonder if all the other professions would gather and hold a demonstration. Of course, Leeha was just thinking about it.

I should try to learn how to do it—.

“Yes! Respected director! I’m coming!”

Leeha followed Browless with big army-style steps.

“You look stupid.”

“Sorry.”

Browless put the musket on the wall, in the collection room.

There were three shelves embedded on the wall.

The place that Browless chose was the middle. The top and bottom shelves were empty.

‘Come to think of it, that musket looks pretty special.’

What goes in the three shelves, three muskets? Of course, it had to do with the three musketeers.

It was easy to see for Leeha.

Three of the most famous musketeers in the history of the Fibiel Kingdom, the founders of Brown Bess Musket Academy.

Perhaps it was there where the three founders put their guns.

What happened to the two empty shelves? Leeha suddenly wondered what happened to the other two.

‘And that musket that Browless used… Does the gun have an effect to shorten the reload time? Surely, it should increase agility, right?’

As experienced by Leeha, if the musket had an +50 agility effect, it would definitely increase the reload speed.

‘Still, 7 seconds is a scam!’


Leeha looked at the musket.

There was not even a single reflection, it was so black that it hurt the viewer’s eyes.

Neither the barrel, nor the butt plate seemed to be made of ordinary material. What the hell was that pitch black musket? It was like a gun that was needed only by someone hiding in the dark sniping.

“What are you looking at?”

“Ah, sorry.”

Leeha scratched his head and turned.

It was as if Browless’s voice was admonishing Leeha. Apparently, he doesn’t like someone getting interested in his musket.

“I went to the Sacred Knights. Someone knows you, rookie.”

“It seems you saw Sir Shindong no,…. Sir Syndergaard.”

“Right. I let them know that Hijuit-Ka died.”

“Huh! Yes. I have successfully completed the mission and returned.”

Leeha, proudly and confidently raised his chest.

Browless nodded slightly.

He still had an expressionless face, and his tone was cold, but was clearly different from before.

“Sheymoore is quite far. You returned sooner than I thought.”

There was a sense of arrogance in the way he spoke. With a hint of curiosity.

“Yes! I ran nonstop to report to the director!”

“Ran? Haha, you’re really good at making funny jokes. Is that a distance that you could run to get here?”

It didn’t matter if it was real. Leeha looked at Browless and smiled.

“Anyway, good job, rookie.”


“Thank you!”

Leeha, while sitting, took an alert posture and answered firmly. Today, his respect for Browless came out of nowhere.

As if in response, the sound effect for completing the quest resounded.

Babam-!

『You have completed the quest: A promising seedling -1.』

『Intimacy with Browless increased by 30%.』

『Intimacy with the Sacred Knights increased by 10%.』

『Fibiel Kingdom’s national contribution increased by 20.』

‘Huu, good. Good.’

As a result, his intimacy with Browless was 95%!

The Guard Captain, who was businesslike in Candle Castle, even hugged Leeha when his intimacy reached 100%.

So what about Browless?

‘I don’t think he will, but… ‘

At least he wouldn’t be as cold as he is now.

Even now, he grunts most of the time while answering.

But Leeha wanted more than that.

There must be some words that he would hear when his intimacy reached 100%.

‘Would I be able to learn rapid fire as well?’

Another sound effect echoed in Leeha’s ears as he smiled.

Babam-!

‘Huh?’

『You have completed the quest Browless’s Expectations.』

『Intimacy with Browless increased by 30%.』

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with Browless.』

『Continental Reputation increased by 30.』

“So much… no.”

Browless shook his head slightly.

He thought for a moment, hesitated, and opened his mouth calmly.

“You have exceeded my expectations.”

And he knew.

‘Also… Even if I didn’t see it, I must have done the hidden quest, right?’

Another quest, 『Browless’s expectations』 was also cleared.

With this, Leeha reached 100% intimacy much faster than expected, which he thought could only be achieved by completing a quest one more time.

“Thank you!”

Leeha’s voice was loud and refreshing.

Who would have thought that Browless would give such a compliment? Even when he over-achieved, there were no words of praise.

It didn’t really suit Browless, but it made Leeha twice as happy, hearing compliments from his mouth that didn’t suit him.

“Don’t laugh.”

“Yes… ahem, of course.”

It was a pity that the effect disappeared so quickly.

“It would be a waste of time to ask you to gather the gallbladder of bears or the teeth of snakes.”

“It’s okay sir! If you want to, I could do it perfectly well!”

“No, no. You don’t have to. Because you have other work to do.”

There was something else? Is he trying to give me another quest?

Browless’s words were difficult to understand at first, but Leeha felt good.

‘Yes! My rank has gone up from 『Rookie』 to 『You』!’

Leeha waited patiently for the next quest, but Browless did not continue to speak.

After he emptied his cup and came back after refilling his tea, Browless still didn’t say a word, and Leeha continued to wait.

‘This is so… I can’t even ask… why are you doing this to me?’

In the end, it was Leeha who opened his mouth first.

‘Now that I have 100% intimacy, I could ask, right?’

As soon as he entered the collection room, the words he wanted to ask reached the end of his throat.

“Can I ask you one thing?”

“What is it?”

“How did you shoot that fast?”

What was the secret to the speed that made the musket into a bolt action rifle?

“You think that’s fast?”

“Yes? Naturally… ”

“This… It’s still slow. I will have to call you ‘Rookie’ again.”

But Browless grinned as he took a sip of tea.

‘What does he mean now? Surely? Is he saying it could be faster?’

Faster than 7 seconds? Does that make sense?

“How-”

“Didn’t you tell me what’s important for a musketeer?”

“Ah, yes. I remember.”

He couldn’t forget. Because there was only one thing that Browless had been talking about since the beginning.

‘Talent. Is he bragging about his talent now?’

Was it beyond what an NPC could answer? Should I just give up?

‘No, I can’t.’

He must somehow learn it. At least get a clue.

Cutting the reload time into a few seconds was like breaking through human limitations. It was not something that could simply be explained with innate talent. Whether it was a skill or weapon option, Leeha thought that there must be a secret besides talent. This time, he looked straight into Browless’s eyes and asked.

“Is it some sort of skill, gun option, or magic?”

“Are you talking about delicate hand movement? You can’t shoot like me with that.”

“Is that so?”

It was not a skill.

“I really want to learn rapid fire. Could it be that rapid fire has something to do with the musket?”

Browless took a sip quietly.

Rather, this quietness, this tension, made Leeha nervous.

I shouldn’t have asked, I should not have asked!

‘Hmm… Is he thinking about something?’

Leeha also drank a sip of tea.

In a situation that seemed to have broken down, Leeha realized the intention of Middle Earth once more.

‘There’s something. Some keyword… Just like when I convinced the bakery owner in Candle Castle, I should get a clue to move this story forward.

And what would be the clue? Only one thing popped into Leeha’s mind.

“And that musket, the founders of Brown Bess Musket Academy. Aren’t there two other people along with the director-?

With a sound of teacup being brought down strongly, Browless finally opened his mouth.

“Do you know about the three musketeers?”

“Three musketeers?”

The three musketeers that came out when he had a question about the musket. There was only one thing it referred to.

“Aren’t those the three people that founded the Brown Bess Musket Academy?”

Three of the strongest musketeers of the Fibiel Kingdom.

Upon hearing Leeha’s answer, the corner of Browless’s lips rose slightly. However, his eyes were somewhat sad.

(To be continued…)
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“Rapid-fire Browless.”

“Yes?”

Browless did not answer Leeha’s question and continued speaking slowly with his eyes closed.

“Piercing Brown.”

Rapid-fire Browless, Piercing Brown? Considering that Browless spoke his name first… Was it also a name?

Leeha could confirm it by listening to Browless’s next word.

“Bullseye Elizabeth… No, I should say, mrs. Brown.”

Browless, Brown, and Elizabeth.

“Brown Bess. Brown Bess. Brown Bess Musket Academy?”

“Right, with how smart you are, you should be aware of it.”

Browless opened his eyes again. Leeha always wondered if this training center was named after a person.

‘Rapid fire Browless, Piercing Brown, and Bullseye Elizabeth. Hang on, he didn’t have his name on the academy even though he was the director?’

Besides, when he said Elizabeth and changed it to Mrs. Brown, it would mean that Brown and Elizabeth got married…

“The Three Musketeers of Fibiel Kingdom, those were fun times.”

Browless’s eyes were getting wet.

He was reminiscing. Leeha waited for the middle-aged director to talk.

“The academy was also lively. There were a lot of trainees, and whenever the stories of the Three Musketeers active on the battlefield spread, people came holding muskets. Can you imagine people lining up in a shiny building, in a hallway, and on the training grounds with no space to walk in?”

Leeha nodded.


Browless was a little furious.

In fact, it was a picture that was difficult to imagine in its current shabby appearance.

“They were different from me. Treating people kindly and running the academy… It was different for me. Can’t you tell just by looking at the name of the academy?”

“I understand that the academy was named after them. But the director’s name is-”

“My name is not important. I am a sniper. There was no need to reveal my name.”

By listening to Browless’s explanation, Leeha was able to understand the tendencies of the three people.

Their ability to handle muskets may have been inconsistent, but their personalities would have made a big difference.

You can tell just by looking at Browless appearance that he was wary as soon as he saw Leeha.

From what he had said, mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth must have had a friendly attitude and were friendly towards people.

“They…, where are the two now……?”

“They’re gone.”

“Yes?”

“Those two disappeared from the battlefield and it was all over… “

Shwaak– As Browless finished speaking, a notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『Disappeared Legends』

Description: At the time of the Second Human-Demon War nearing its end, at the Battle of Marching Plains the Three Musketeers of the Fibiel Kingdom were dispatched, but only Browless returned.

Find the location of his missing colleagues. No, Browless wants to know at the very least whether they are dead or alive. Accurate information, not rumors.

Content: Within 20 days, track Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth (Mrs. Brown)

Reward: ??

Condition for Failure: When the deadline is exceeded,


when incorrect information is provided (limited to 1 chance)

Penalty for failure: 『Disappeared Legends』 will disappear,

『Browless’s Expectations』 will be canceled,

Quest route will reset.

– Do you want to accept?

‘Hmm? What?’

What is this?

Leeha’s eyes were rolling in a frenzy.

‘First of all, their location is not clear, what is life or death?’

Dead or alive? He said they were missing!

Disappeared in battle, in the modern military, mIA (Missing In Action) are stamped and treated as a soldier…

‘It can’t be. Even if they died, there was something certain.’

Since the quest window appeared, there was not much time.

No, at this point, wouldn’t refusing itself give up a huge privilege?

‘Giving up is failure anyway!’

Above all, Browless expectations are at stake. Didn’t he say that too? It was a waste of time to collect bears gallbladders.

What if I give up?

‘I’ll have to do a quest to catch monsters again. Just like ordinary users.’

Similar to the ‘Quest route reset’.

He couldn’t do that. If Leeha wanted to grow faster than others, grow stronger, and catch up with the rankers, he can’t go the normal path.


Even if he tried and failed, it was better than giving up on the challenge itself.

‘Can I try to figure out what happened to the two?’

Leeha pressed the accept button.

“You? Can you do it?”

“I can’t give up without even trying.”

“Heh, yes. Miss Elizabeth would have liked you if she had seen you. But, it won’t be easy.”

“I know.”

The investigation period was only 20 days. 20 days in Middle Earth is 4 days in reality.

‘That’s it, I should be able to find them by reducing my time to sleep. First, I need to get some information here.’

In any case, wouldn’t Browless know the most?

“Do you remember what happened?”

The Battle of Marching Plains. If the place had a name, it would most likely be on the map.

All Leeha had to do was dig up information and go search for it himself.

Browless nodded.

“The Battle of Marching Plains. It was the final battle(會 戰) that even a part of the Demon King appeared… we couldn’t even afford to look out for each other.

‘A Demon King’s Fragment? No, now is not the time to worry about those words.’

“Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth went to search for a sniping position, and I moved with a separate unit of the Fibiel-Minis National Alliance. It was because I had no choice but to step forward to prevent their movements from getting detected by the Demon King’s army.”

“I see.”

Leeha pictured the last battle of the Second Human-Demon War in his head.

A separate unit on the human side that bypassed the Marching Plain.

Of course, they must have been famous soldiers, and they must have moved secretly as they were a separate unit.

‘Of course, if it was a large-scale war, there would have been an enormous number of troops. If they found a watchtower and shot every enemy they saw …

Browless’s nickname is Rapid fire.

Not at a normal rate of fire. As it was a large-scale war, the reconnaissance team of the monsters would not have been few.

To process all those monsters!

‘I know from experience that monsters move faster than humans, so if you miss even once, the secret would be exposed.’

“That’s it.”

“Yes?”

“After the operation was over, I returned and waited for them… ”

‘They didn’t come back? No, that was too short. It was no different from the one that was written from the quest description, right?’

“Didn’t the two of them say anything? They went to find a sniping point, but didn’t they have a way to get in touch with the headquarters in some way?”

“Shouldn’t I know that much?”

Browless’s voice was low.

“Rumors of them living and dying, there were a lot of them. There were even rumors of betrayal. It even said that if those two, a married couple were alive, why wouldn’t they show up? There was even a rumor that they ran away somewhere. Of course, I beat the ones who spread the rumor to death.”

Browless seemed trembling slightly.

‘It was rumored that they escaped for love. Of course, that was not what Browless believes.’

Leeha took a deep breath and moved to his second question.

He had a slightly ominous feeling.

“Then, what level of information do I need to provide?”

“It should be accurate. At least there must be some clue or evidence. So that I could understand. Are you going to bring up some silly rumors?”

“Of course not. I will try to find reliable and accurate information.”

Does that mean gathering information from the pubs and citizens was not enough?

‘Then even if I collect information on my own… would that be a failure if Browless is not satisfied with the information?’

Then time really is life.

Somehow, Leeha had to gather as much information as possible and discern some clues from it.

‘Didn’t it say that there is only a one-time limit for clearing? It means that once I say a word, there will be no next time.’

Accurate and definite information.

Leeha seemed to burst out into laughter. Isn’t this sniping as well? Sniping information, a sniping opportunity.

‘And me… ?’

He was a sniper. He was a musketeer. One step at a time. He also had the resolve. Leeha stood up.

“I will go.”

“I believe in you.”

Browless nodded his head.

‘20 days, I don’t have time to waste.’

Since he cleared the Promising Seedling-1, Leeha thought Browless would give the Promising Seedling-2 quest. It suddenly became like this.

‘As the hidden quest was cleared, the path changed. Did someone else take this path as well?’ No, he thought so… There surely would be someone else who managed to do so.

‘At least two.’

Browless tested him when he first came to the academy. Obviously, two other people passed the ridiculous test.

The two who passed the quest first. Leeha thought that they should have already taken this path.

‘I don’t know who they are… I am sure they did something similar as well. I’ll chase after them.’

Leeha opened his map.

‘Now, what should I do first?’ The first thing he searched was ‘The Marching Plains’. However, no such name appeared on the map.

‘It isn’t inside the Fibiel Kingdom?’

It meant that it was outside the kingdom’s territory.

In other words, it could be seen that time was tight even for checking.

‘A very great quest. Okay, I get it. For now, I need to deal with the sundries. Let’s find the location of the plains while dealing with the sundries.’

Leeha headed to the marketplace of Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom, all while thinking of gathering information about the Three Musketeers…

(To be continued…)
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“Are you saying that the owner doesn’t know anything?”

“That’s right! No, the Three Musketeers were disbanded. It was a fact that the whole Fibiel Kingdom knows, and now, here you are trying to investigate. What are you going to do to find the dead? Did you come here to listen to rumors?”

“No, it’s not like that. Is there any evidence that they are dead?”

“What evidence? What could a missing person do, more than die? It was a large-scale battle, where even Demon King’s Fragment came out! Are there only one or two who haven’t been able to recover their corpse?”

The owner of the armor store sniffled and shook his head.

In the end, all he knew were rumors.

“Okay. I will come back next time.”

“Yes, okay. Please come again! Thank you for bringing me some good armor!”

『Skill: Bargaining has risen to level 5.』

“Hmm… ”

As he left the armor store, a pleasant notification appeared, but Leeha’s expression was dark.

Even though the equipment dropped by the Rising Sun guild was successfully sold and his bargaining skill level also increased…

“There were definitely expensive items and were sold well… ”

Leeha opened his bag and put the money in it.

He only sold three high-grade armors, but his total fortune increased to 7 gold.

He originally had 4 gold, which meant that the three pieces of armor cost 1 gold each.

How expensive would it be to buy?

Considering the Rising Sun guild, it would be worth a little more, but Leeha felt a headache rather than exhilaration.


‘This is much more difficult than I thought.’

He had a hard time gathering information.

It was said that they were the most famous musketeers in the history of the Fibiel Kingdom, so Leeha thought it would be easy to find a clue.

‘But there were a lot of people who didn’t even know their names. By the way, the owner of the armor store said he was a veteran of the second Human-Demon war, so I thought he would have some information… ’

At least he knew their names. It must be said, at least all the rumors I heard are similar to the ones from the tailor shop and the accessory store.

‘Now there is only one shop left.’

Leeha opened the door to the shop opposite the armor shop.

“Welcome!”

With the sound of the bell chime, Leeha opened the door and entered.

The sound of people muttering entered his ears.

From NPCs and users who were talking like they were flirting, to the users who were watching in front of them. It was indeed a popular store.

“Hello, mr. Shop owner!”

“Oh, oh. Ha Leeha-ssi. You’ve been gone for a long time.”

“Hehe, have you been well?”

“I’m good. How can I help you today? Do you want to change your gun?”

“If the owner gives me a discount, I will buy it right away! You should be able to give a 50% discount for something that does not sell anyway!”

“Haha, your words, really… ”

When Leeha brazenly laughed, the owner shook his head as if he could not take it. If Leeha could change his weapons, he would.

Just like the other users who stared at the different swords displayed around them, Leeha also wanted to have a good musket.

‘But it’s too expensive.’


Leeha had 7 gold, which meant that he had money to use, but he did not want to.

If he wanted to buy a level 35 musket, he needed to fork out 7 gold.

Of course, Leeha was only level 32.

‘Still, in terms of agility, it is already at level 60. I might not be able to use a level 60 musket due to strength requirement or something, no? And I don’t want to use a level 30 musket.’

It was also true that his requirements were raised.

At level 32, he was only considered a beginner in Middle Earth.

Leeha laughed and spoke to the owner of the weapon shop.

“Haha, there’s nothing different today, in fact, I have something I want to ask you.”

“Oh yeah? what is it?”

“Mr. Owner… didn’t you say you were part of the Second Human-Demon War before?”

In fact, it was almost like public knowledge… The weapon shop owner and the armor shop owner were prideful and were competing with each other, so if one paid a little attention to such kind of information, one could easily find it out.

Of course, like other users around, most people just watched the weapon shop owner without any interest, it was just a useless NPC setting, so they ignored it.

“Yes, that’s right. Then again, you know me. It was no joke.”

“Really? Then do you know about the Three Musketeers?”

“Three Musketeers! Mister Brown, miss Elizabeth, and Mister Browless! Of course. Because they would always bow whenever they saw me.”

The weapon shop owner proudly replied, pounding his chest.

“That’s our Mr. Owner. You must have been amazing!”

“Then, the memory of them doing that whenever I came is still vivid-”

“Now, I will be sure to deliver those words to our director, Browless.”

“–But, I will be offended if you do that, Ha Leeha-ssi.”


The weapon shop owner hastily waved his hand and Leeha.

At least among the NPCs Leeha met in the capital, no one didn’t know about Browless’s personality.

If such a cheeky talk got into his ears, he would be prepared to punch three holes in their bodies.

“The shop owner from the armor shop across told me everything. He said that the two of you delivered supplies together… ”

“That… that bastard should know what to say and what not to say. That’s why I don’t like him. But since I was from the supply delivery, it was right for them to thank me whenever they saw me! Do not misunderstand!”

“Haha, I get it. So, there’s something I want to ask you. I was wondering if you know something about the whereabouts of the two among the Three Musketeers who disappeared.”

“Mister and Missus Brown?”

“Yes, those two.”

“Yeah, they were amazing. It was not an exaggeration to say that they were the couple of the century that bloomed through war.”

The weapon shop owner smiled warmly.

That look… Does he know something?

“Where did the couple of the century go?”

“Do you think I know? I used to wander in the back, but I never went to the battlefield. I had been in my room anyway, so how would I know that? I’m going to tell you something new about those two people. Anyway, there were numerous rumors.”

“Is it the rumor… that they are dead?”

Another dead end.

He opened his mouth and half-gave up, but the weapon shop owner’s reply was lengthy.

“Of course not. There were many rumors that they died, but no one had seen it with their own eyes, so what do they know? There were a lot of rumors. There were also disgusting things…

Anyway, at the time of the battle, it was only said that they died, but after the war ended, various stories began to spread. How much would the storytellers love it, if there were rumors that they were alive? Some crafted the stories like they eloped, to make it more like gossip, but that wasn’t the first rumor.”

“Yes? What then?”

Are there rumors that they were still alive?

“Surrender. No, it could be called betrayal.”

“Surrender? Betrayal? Another country?”

“There’s no such thing as another country! At that time, all humans are in an alliance. Until the Battle of the Marching Plains, there was no time to fight for the interests of each country. If we lost that battle, humanity would have been annihilated.”

“Then, where did those two go?”

“Right. There is only one place where you can go when you betray humankind.”

“Are you saying… the Demon King?”

“Shh, your voice is too loud!”

What is this? The weapon shop owner lowered his voice as if someone was listening.

It was a weird attitude while talking about a rumor.

However, even Leeha gulped and swallowed his saliva, and the weapon shop owner continued speaking quietly.

“It was the most dangerous and also the most memorable of all the words I heard. I don’t know if it was mere surrender or active participation, but it was a rumor anyway.”

“Ahh, but that’s absurd. Those two were musketeers. To fire a musket in a good spot, it was natural to take position deep into the enemy’s position…. Above all, why would they join the Demon King? They are the most famous musketeers in the history of Fibiel.”

It was a rumor that people would be suspicious of, no matter how many times they heard it, although Leeha thought about it seriously.

Even during the Second Human-Demon War, they were already famous musketeers.

A life that guaranteed them to be treated adequately, with the reputation to spare. Why would they abandon everything and join the Demon King’s side?

However, the weapon shop owner resolutely shook his head.

“They must have thought that humans would lose! In fact, the Battle of Marching Plains was also a close fight! If we lost there, the demons and monsters would now rule the continent. After that, you know well how strong the remnants are, right?”

He was sure Leeha also knew.

Not long ago, he killed one of those remnants, the deputy commander of the monsters, the Kobold Chieftain Hijuit-Ka.

Besides, those who survive are still everywhere.

Even if the numbers were reduced to a certain extent, if the monsters are not killed enough to prevent them from multiplying, humanity will surely be in danger.

“It was a close battle?”

“I’ve said it before, but even though I haven’t seen it personally, I have ears to hear. It was said that there were many cases in which reports of victories received at breakfast were outnumbered by reports of losses in dinner. In fact, the general opinion was that it was much more difficult for us. Winning was a miracle!”

“Hmmm-! No matter how much you say… ”

“Hey, you don’t have to believe anything.”

The weapon shop owner licked his tongue and rolled his eyes.

‘It’s definitely interesting. But there is no evidence whatsoever. That’s why it’s no different from the story of eloping.’

Rumors that they died or eloped must have spread like this.

Rumors were usually like that.

‘And the ones who spread the rumor about eloping … I heard that Browless beat them to death…’

Now, it was obvious what would happen if he took these stories lightly.

After he finished organizing his thoughts, Leeha opened his mouth again.

“By the way, it was interesting.”

“Was it?”

“Yes. That… the heroes’ betrayal.”

“Right. That’s right! So, there were rumors that they are resting in the Royal Palace.”

“Ah, not that one.”

Leeha smiled.

“Then what? What else, was there anything else?”

“No. This story was all made by the owner. You thought I didn’t know? Owner, you can be a writer, you know?”

“Ho! Ha Leeha-ssi! What does that mean now?”

“What? No, it’s true! Where did you hear that, owner? They all say that they are dead. To be honest, it’s so absurd I can’t believe it.”

“If you don’t want to believe, then don’t believe it! Who should I tell this to? This is really sad!”

As Leeha gently scratched his cheeks, the weapon shop owner turned around.

“Hey, mr. Shop owner! I believe you. Of course, I believe you! But again, I can’t just say that. What if I get called a liar if I say this for no reason. What do people know these days? I have a lot of doubts… I’m just worried that I might insult my boss for nothing. You know well that I’m on the boss’ side.”

Leeha felt like, the more he played Middle Earth, the more insincere he had become, but when he spoke skillfully, the expression of the owner quickly relaxed.

He even nodded in agreement with Leeha…

“That’s true. People don’t need to know. What’s a veteran like me talking about for no reason? Isn’t that right?”

“That’s right. So, where did you hear it from, owner?”

Leeha’s eyes twinkled.

Was there a reason?!

“Right. I like to talk, but I don’t makeup stories that are not true! Some people had seen the two, going to the Demon King army. I heard him talk too.”

“Really?”

Leeha felt his voice rise without realizing it.

‘There were witnesses?’

Its credibility suddenly rose sharply.

If there were witnesses, does that mean he could clear the quest in one go?

‘Browless doesn’t know. He said that the last news was after the operation started. That is if the witness is certain… ‘

It could mean that I could provide their ‘last appearance’ that Browless does not know. In any case, I must first meet the witness.’

“Who was it? Who was the witness?”

“Cough. Cough. I like you, but I don’t know if it’s okay to talk like this.”

“Hey, owner. It is only between us. Whenever I get a good weapon, I sell it here. Of course, that would still be the case in the future.”

As Leeha grumbled, the arms of the weapon shop owner backed away.

He had a casual expression. The game made his expression so detailed.

Leeha thought that perhaps, there was an invisible hand controlling things from behind.

“Hahaha, Leeha-ssi knows me well, right? It’s hard to see musketeers these days. Ehem,… whatchamacallit… “

“Are you worried about muskets getting stocked?”

“I’m not saying that’s necessarily the case… Thank you for thinking like that. Isn’t it time to change weapons?”

The weapon shop owner smirked and laughed…

(To be continued…)
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It meant that what Leeha thought was exactly on point. He would eventually need to buy something.

‘It’s a little iffy to change now… should I just replace my musket?’

After deducting the fees to buy gunpowder, Leeha still had a budget of around 6 gold.

Normally, he would argue that he would never buy it, but he had a more important problem right now.

Above all, he was able to have a more relaxed mind because he had something to rely on.

‘Because I haven’t sold the Special Kobold Eonwoldo. I will put it on the auction house.’

Considering that 5 or 6 gold is a lot. Leeha decided to spend money to gather information.

No, it was not that either.

In any case, if Leeha were to change his weapon, compared to the ‘low-class crude musket’, which was provided in the beginning, the difference in attack power was simply astounding.

“Okay. Please recommend one to me.”

“Oh, really? Right, right, you should get one. I wonder what kind of gun would suit Ha Leeha-ssi. Wait here for a second.”

The weapon shop owner asked Leeha to wait and ran around the counter.

In the meantime, while the owner was gone, a few people came and went to buy from another clerk. He came back holding a musket in each of his hands.

“Come on, take a look. I brought this one because I wanted to show something on par with Ha Leeha-ssi’s standard, but in fact, judging from your abilities, I recommend you use this other one.”

The weapon shop owner lifted what was in his left hand and then immediately lifted what was in his right hand.

‘Standard? Capability?… It means the recommendations are based on level and stats, right?’

There was no way NPCs could know about the levels and stats of users. It really seems like one was talking to a real person, but at times like this, one would feel that they are NPCs.

“How much is this one that fits my capability?”


“Normally, it would cost 18 gold.”

“18… gold? Why is it so expensive!”

Leeha exclaimed without realizing it.

Fortunately, the weapon shop owner pretended that he didn’t hear anything, and Leeha sighed a small sigh of relief.

“Of course, do you think the musket is ordinary? You can’t even get it in a small town. You should know it well”

“Hehe, how about the one with my standard?”

“It’s a little bit cheaper. I’ll give it to Leeha for only 6 gold. If it was the normal price, it would be 8 gold!”

The difference was too big. Isn’t there a musket with the price in the middle?

“Then. Take it slowly, you need to choose well.”

The weapon shop owner gave the two muskets to Leeha.

『Ordinary Spitfire』

Attack power: 1,270 Range: 40m Attack Speed: 1 shot per minute Requirement: Strength: 60 or higher

Agility: 250 or higher

Gunpowder, ramrod, and Bullet

Description: When the trigger is pulled, a black flame will fire to the air.

The description is much more plausible, it has 1270 attack power?

‘The attack power of the low-class crude musket is 233… that’s more than 6 times the attack power!’

Of course, it was an item that required 250 agility or higher, it was not meant to be used by a low-level player. One needs to be around level 50 to use.

Of course, Leeha’s agility was not at 250, but over 300, so it was possible.

‘I’m not strong enough. Character Window.’


Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 32 (17%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 18

HP： 1840 / MP： 380

Stats:

Strength: 52 (+37)

Agility: 331 (+139)

Intelligence: 55 (+40)

Constitution: 81 (+33)

Mind: 27 (+17)

Remaining stats: 5

Strength was insufficient.

Putting all his remaining stat points was not enough, and he lacked 12 gold.

Leeha had unfortunately given up on the Spitfire.

‘If I sold the Kobold Eonwoldo, I could make some money. However, I’d better buy a better musket. I can change it then anyway, so there is no need to overdo it now. I should buy a cheap one first, and when I stop by the auction house, I’ll buy a better one.’

Of course, the musket he would buy would be much better than Spitfire.

Right now, he was not even willing to buy one worth 6 gold… Leeha opened the information on the 6 gold musket.

『 Ordinary Needle Gun』

Attack Power: 688 Range: 40m Attack Speed: 1 shot per minute

Requirements: Strength: 30 or higher


Agility: 180 or higher,

Gunpowder, ramrod, bullet

Description: It will never end with a sting. One can’t be fooled by its name alone.

“Huh… Needle gun? Did they name it like this to sound funny!”

Leeha wanted to grumble, but he couldn’t.

Judging from the attack power and agility, the musket could be used from around the late 30s to early 40s.

‘Isn’t it great too?’

And compared to the name low-grade crude musket, the needle gun’s attack power is almost 3 times greater. Leeha decided.

“Mr. Shop Owner!”

“Yes, yes, have you decided?”

The weapon shop owner asked. Of course, just because Leeha made up his mind didn’t mean he would pay the full price.

‘Activate Bargaining.’

『Bargaining skill has been activated.』

『There is a 24% increased chance of persuading the target.』

Getting information, reducing the price of the Needle Gun, and selling the low-grade crude musket at a high price. It was the result that Leeha wanted.

“Thank you, see you next time!”

“T… That. Next time… aah… ”

The weak voice of the weapon shop owner’s voice echoed behind Leeha.

Still, as a guest, he couldn’t tell Leeha not to come, and the weapon shop owner was the one who suggested for Leeha to buy a weapon.

“Hehe, yes! I have a good musket now!”

Not only in Candle Castle, but also with Browless, Leeha’s skill had improved. There was no way that any NPC could be Leeha’s opponent.

‘Hehe, 5 gold and 30 silver. I got a 10% discount.’

He was able to reduce the price of the 6 gold musket by 70 silver. If he bought gunpowder and bullets at a reduced price, it would be enough to fill his bag.

Leeha looked at the musket on his shoulder with a happy expression.

A matte, dark barrel with a dark-reddish Brown wooden butt and a heavy yet warm texture was held by Leeha’s hand.

Compared to the low-grade crude musket, that creaked due to excessive ‘hitting’. Leeha liked everything, except for the name, which felt a little weak.

“Hehe, I’m pretty sure there won’t be any problem using you for a while. Now then… Leeha opened his map.

He learned the location of the ‘witness’ that saw Mister Brown and Miss Elizabeth from the weapon shop owner.

It was in a small to medium-sized city in the southwestern part of the Fibiel Kingdom.

‘It’s a long way, but I have to go anyway.’

Another piece of information he heard from the weapon shop owner was the location of the Marching Plain.

He said that it was a vast place that spread across the Nitai Village to the Minis Kingdom.

It was not marked in the Fibiel Kingdom map, so he thought it was somewhere else, and as expected, it was outside the border.

‘So there is a possibility that the person in Nitai is a real witness.’

In any case, that person took part directly in the Second Human-Demon War and lived near the site of the last battle where Mister Brown and Miss Elizabeth disappeared. Leeha thought that it was more reliable than the rumors floating around the capital.

‘Of course, I can’t walk to get there.’

No matter how much stamina he had, his quest was a fight against time.

Leeha was a person that knew how to properly allocate money and time.

“Let’s go to Candle Castle! Let’s use warp to get there.”

“Let’s go to Almus! It’s 10% cheaper to use the warp gate there!”

“Anyone going to the northern border? Any village nearby would be fine, so you could drop me off at the warp gate~ ” So he came to the warp gate.

It was a transport magic circle equipped only in small and medium-sized cities or medium-sized fortresses or higher.

One could also use it not only inside the kingdom but also for other kingdoms as well, if an agreement has been signed, so it was no exaggeration to say that the area near the warp gate was always full.

“Where are you going?”

“I am going to Nitai.”

“Is this your first time using a warp gate?”

“Yes.”

Is she an NPC? The tone of the woman talking to Leeha was formal.

“The city within the Fibiel Kingdom, nitai. 1 person. It will cost 80 silver.”

“Yes? How much?”

“Transportation cost for one person to Nitai is 80 silver.”

“E-e-eighty? 80 silver? The space movement scroll is only between 50 and 60 silver, so why-”

“Then use the scroll. Next.”

The woman cut off Leeha’s words without a second thought.

“N-no. No, wait a minute.”

Leeha hurriedly waved his hands to catch the woman’s attention. He knew the scroll was cheap. However, one cannot use the scroll unless he had the mana signature of the place he wanted to go to.

‘Damn it! I cut the cost of the musket I bought by 70 silver only to spend 80 silver here… ’

What is this? In the end, I took 1 step forward and took 2 steps back.

Leeha deliberately spoke slowly and looked around, but did not hear a call to go to Nitai or near the border of the Minis Kingdom.

He couldn’t even buy a crystal ball that had the mana signature of Nitai, because it was expensive… In the end, Leeha swallowed his tears about the thought of throwing away his money.

‘A round trip is 1 gold and 60 silver… I really am going crazy.’

Leeha thought about how just a few hours ago he had 7 gold. After spending it, it looked like he would only have 10 silver left.

“Here it is. 80 silver. Please send me off quickly.”

“Thank you, sir. I received 80 silver. Please stand on top of the magic circle.”

Leeha couldn’t help but feel like crying when he saw the woman smile professionally when she received the money.

Leeha suppressed his aching heart and walked on top of the magic circle, pointed to by the woman.

“I wish you a pleasant trip.”

As the woman swung and lowered her wand, light erupted from the magic circle.

For a moment, Leeha’s vision went out as if he was blind, and he felt a sense of getting blown away and falling, while he was standing.

Falling from the sky, was a relatively familiar feeling in Middle Earth!

“OOOOOHHH!”

By the time he opened his eyes while flapping his arms, everything was already over.

“Welcome to Nitai.”

Suddenly, another woman greeted Leeha.

‘I’ll find you no matter what… for the round trip that costs 1 gold and 60 silver!’

Leeha turned around as soon as he got off the magic circle, the person he had to find was named the ‘One-armed Lepanto’.

(To be continued…)
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‘So, I’m looking for a veteran of the Second Human-Demon War….but without an arm. For information like this, it is best to ask in crowded places.’

Leeha knew the witness’s name and unique appearance, so the NPCs should know about it.

Leeha opened his map and zoomed in on the Nitai Village. The map was really helpful for Leeha.

‘If it wasn’t for this, I would have lost a lot of time.’

Every time he had to find something, he would have had to log out and back in again to find the information.

Since the time between reality and Middle Earth flowed differently, there was a risk of a huge loss of time if something did not go well in reality.

Logging out should be used only when necessary.

“Hehehe, die, monster!”

“Oww, you crazy! Throwing stones!” Waaa—!

“Ahahaha, that kind of weapon does not work on me! My sword, my sword! Oh, I must pursue the archers!”

“Run away, run away, the crazy beggar is chasing us!”

“Kyaaa〜 •—”

What are they doing? A group entered Leeha’s line of sight as he walked towards the pub.

It looked like the neighborhood kids were surrounding someone and throwing rocks at him.

Being bullied must be insane.

‘I want to tell them to stop and… maybe I could get a quest. In exchange for saving the crazy beggar, he might ask me to do something for him!’ … He thought.

If he had such a unique look, it is highly likely.

But for now, it’s not Leeha’s problem. It was crazy to get another quest when he was doing a quest with a time limit.


‘The important quests are, of course, Browless’s and the Lunchbox. I’ll finish those two quests first and come back to this city later.’

He walked back down the road and stepped toward the pub again.

It was a small to medium-sized city that even had a bank, but the inside was not so spacious.

Less than 10 minutes later, Leeha entered Nitai’s pub.

“Welcome.”

The old wooden door creaked, followed by a short reflexive greeting.

There were a few round tables scattered in the dark and the counter had some seats. Because it was just before sunset, there were few people gathered.

“One butterbeer please.”

Leeha naturally went to the counter and sat down.

At the appearance of an outlander, people’s eyes went to Leeha for a moment.

However, it was only for a while.

‘Whether it’s a human or an NPC.’

There was chatter and laughter, but when he heard their conversation, Leeha couldn’t make any sense of it.

“Here it is.”

“Thank you. May I ask you something?”

As soon as the butterbeer came out, Leeha opened his mouth.

In any case, only the owner of the pub was certainly an NPC. Of course, Leeha had to ask him.

“What is it?”

“I heard there was a one-armed man named Lepanto in this city… Do you know him?”

“One-armed Lepanto? One-armed Lepanto… ”


The bearded owner of the pub repeated the name over and over again but shook his head.

“Well? There are a lot of people without an arm in this town, but I don’t know their name.”

“There are a lot of people without an arm?”

“Just because the war is over doesn’t mean that their arm will come back.”

“Oh, then… They all participated in the Second Human-Demon Wa-”

“That’s right. I mean, there are a lot of people like that in this town. Are you an outlander?”

“Ah… ”

The pub owner only shrugged his shoulders.

It was a village where veterans gather? If that’s the case…

‘Isn’t it different from what I heard from the weapon shop owner?’

Leeha thought that it would be easy to find One-armed Lepanto. In a village where there were many people without one arm, there was no other choice but to wander around.

“Do you want me to ask them for you?”

“Yes. Please.”

“Excuse me! Does anyone know Lepanto? It is said that he is one-armed?”

The owner of the pub shouted at the customers.

They focused their attention on him. If the owner of the pub treated the people like this, it means that they were all NPCs.

“One-armed? Here, Jack is one-armed too! Hahaha, did you say it was cut off by a kobold?”

“This guy! It was a commander-level! It wasn’t an ordinary kobold!”

“Where is the stupid fighter that got his arm cut off by a kobold? Kuhahaha!”

“You! An arrow got stuck on your thigh and you have to drag your feet!”


“T-that’s because I was shot by a dark elf! Do you think they have normal bows?”

The man argued with his companion and waved his knotted sleeves.

He certainly doesn’t have one arm, but he’s probably not Lepanto. Besides, making fun of each other’s disabilities… It was proof that they were not close.

“Lepanto… Where did I hear that before? Who was it?”

“Hey, what’s over there! Long ago! That! The fencer that was active in the front lines!

Fencer!”

“Fencer?”

“It’s the one who wielded a rapier!”

“Ah, aaahh!! Skewer, skewer, is his name Lepanto?”

Skewer? Information flowed among the bustling drinkers.

“Who is that? The Fencer Lepanto, doesn’t he have an arm?”

“No… ? One might be missing. Both arms were fine when we saw him, but it was 20 years ago.”

“I heard a rumor that he was here, so I came here… Do you know where he is?”

The drinkers gulped, and drank the butterbeer, and shook their heads.

“Lepanto is in Nitai? Well, if he is here. If it was ‘Skewer’ Lepanto, he should be a Nitai Marshal.”

“Then! Kuhaha, it was fun to see three orc’s heads getting skewered by a thin rapier Phils! You’re a guard, right? Do you know any Lepanto? Skewer Lepanto!”

“No, I don’t. I am a guard, and there are a total of 50 guards in this city. There is none with the name Lepanto. No one uses a rapier.”

All the drinkers seemed to be veterans of the Second Human-Demon War.

The story about Lepanto soon turned into their own stories, and as drunkards usually do, they are bragging about themselves.

‘Hmm, I guess I’ll have to listen to more stories like this to get more information.’

This might be the limit of a pub.

Leeha’s plan changed. It was easy once Leeha found him, but he also thought that there was no easy way to do that.

“Then, do you have any information about Mister Brown and Miss Elizabeth?”

“Three Musketeers? I heard that Browless is in the capital.”

“No, not Browless, but the other two.”

Leeha’s question changed.

If they are veterans, they should know some information.

“Two people? Are they dead? Are they alive?”

“Then… ? Haven’t you heard that they were alive?”

“Aren’t they the ones who ran away with their child?”

“These guys, making a big deal out of nothing. And that nonsense is a lie! I remember hearing that they died.”

“T-that’s right. Okay. Thank you.”

As expected, it was the story of the lovers eloping that was deeply remembered by people. Leeha escaped the pub as he saw the veterans arguing that they died.

‘Damn it… if it continues like this… It would be unavoidable to go looking around myself.’

Well, it doesn’t mean that Leeha got nothing at all.

Rumors of being alive, betrayal, surrender… And a man named Lepanto who was a warrior active on the front lines during the Second Human-Demon War. A fencer with a rapier. His skill would have been considerable…

Would a talented person speak nonsense?

‘If I think positively, it is only natural that those drunkards didn’t know about the betrayal or surrender. Doesn’t that mean he’s a person with a tight mouth? In other words, what if he couldn’t speak freely because what he saw was true?’

It was very likely to be true.

If he had such skill and personality, one could expect roughly what his appearance would be.

‘Somewhat serious looking. He must be someone with tightly closed lips. You should be able tell just by looking at his impression.’

The day was coming to an end.

There were 19 days left to complete the quest of Browless, and 12 days to complete the lunchbox quest.

‘I don’t have time. Let’s go and look around all the shops.’

Leeha started walking all over Nitai.

“Well… I have never heard of such a name.”

“Lepanto! I know who he is! But is he in this city?”

“You didn’t know?”

“I’m sorry, it’s time to close the store.”

“Wouldn’t it be better to go to the city hall and check the resident registration? Isn’t that the young man who came next door?”

“Lepanto… Lepanto… I don’t think there was anyone like that.”

“Thank you.”

Leeha took a deep breath.

“Phew… ”

He looked around the city until midnight but to no avail.

‘How could this be?’ I have no strength to walk. Where should I look?

‘Was he famous? Of course, he was famous 20 years ago, shouldn’t they be able to recognize his face? He would not have a common job if he used a rapier.’

It was now midnight.

No more NPCs roamed the streets. The lights at the marketplace were extinguished, and there were a few patrol guards and a number of users walking around.

“Ehehehe.”

“Ahh! I was surprised! Who are you?”

Leeha was startled by the sudden sound of laughter.

“Ehehe, would you like to play war with me?”

“Oh?”

It was the ‘crazy beggar’ he saw during the day. It was quite late at night, why didn’t he go home?

‘No, he doesn’t have a home. That’s why he’s a beggar. By the way, how did he get behind me?’

Leeha was perplexed by the current situation.

Wasn’t he on a street that no one was walking? Doesn’t that mean that Leeha didn’t realize that he was being followed?

No matter how much he was preoccupied with his thoughts, it was different from before.

Leeha’s assimilation rate was raised by 50%, and his senses were raised.

‘But I didn’t know someone was following me?’

This was something strange. Leeha’s instincts were tingling.

Leeha looked at the crazy beggar.

His beard and hair were thick, so his face couldn’t be seen properly. His bangs went down to his chin and completely covered his eyes and nose.

Wide shoulders and back, strangely bent knees, and… The crazy beggar had no left arm.

“Ajussi, your name… is it Lepanto?”

Middle Earth was also a game. There was no way it would ask a user to blindly look for someone.

And in the situation that Leeha was in, it was not an exaggeration to say that he had met all one-armed men of Nitai.

And a one-armed beggar appeared in the end.

The crazy beggar swung his right arm and shouted.

“Hihi, lepanto! Lepanto! Let’s go, squire! Give me my sword, my rapier!”

Rapier. Leeha was certain.

This crazy beggar must be Lepanto.

(To be continued…)
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“Lepanto-ssi?”

Leeha politely opened his mouth again.

“Ehehe, lepanto! Lepanto! Let’s go! Our war is not over!”

However, the crazy beggar only took actions such as dancing with a stooped posture.

Following the NPC’s strange reaction, Leeha was convinced. This NPC is different from normal NPCs.

‘The smell is different… hmm… Even the useless things were realistically made… ‘

Every time the crazy beggar moved his body, the strange smell emanated from him stimulated Leeha’s nostrils.

‘And the behaviour.’

Come to think of it, the movements Leeha thought were dancing were similar to those of using a rapier.

How could he talk to an insane person?

“Lepanto-ssi! Lepanto-ssi! Calm down!”

Leeha ruffled his hair. The crazy beggar had a scruffy face that hadn’t been washed. Eye mucus and snot were dripping down his eyes and nose, but his eyes were clear.

“Are you tickling me? If so, I’ll use a tickling attack too!”

“Wait. Stay still a little!”

“It’s angry! The troll is mad!”

“What troll? Come on, wait! Lepanto-ssi!”

As the crazy beggar started running, Leeha followed. What was the meaning of this?

“Ehehe, run away! You must not be caught!”


“Stop right there, lepanto-ssi!”

“Run away, run away! Attract more enemies!”

‘Damn he’s fast… he’s extremely fast.’

The crazy beggar was so fast that Leeha had a hard time keeping up with him, who was slouching, with his armless sleeve fluttering.

So he was confident. He’s not completely crazy!

‘I have to somehow pursue him!’

Of course, the question was whether Leeha could pursue the crazy beggar.

“Lepanto-ssi, wait! Wait a minute! I am not trying to attack you.”

“Hehe, hehe, run, run!”

“Mister Brown! I have a question for you about Miss Elizabeth!”

“Hehe, hehe, run, run! Stand still or bullets will fly! You’ll need at least five shields to stop Mister Brown’s bullets!”

“What?”

For a moment, Leeha lost the strength in his knees.

The words that the beggar spat out while running made Leeha dizzy.

‘Mister Brown’s bullets are flying?’

The crazy beggar still ran around Nitai’s alleys and squeaked. Fortunately, there were no other NPCs or users around.

“Run, uh, get on a horse! You must go further! Elizabeth is looking at us from nowhere!”

“Elizabeth… as well!

“Lepanto-ssi! Lepanto-ssi! Haa, haa… Damn it, why is he so fast?”

The distance was getting wider.


Even though he was tired, Leeha didn’t show any signs of stopping.

Finally, Leeha shouted with all his might.

“Is it true that you saw the two of them go to the Demon King’s army? I’m here because director Browless ordered it!”

The crazy beggar stopped.

Leeha was also startled by his sudden movement and stopped.

He gasped for breath. He was wondering if there was anything special in the city, but he was also nervous.

Leeha put strength to the hand holding a musket.

“Lepanto-ssi?”

“Hehehe, that’s a lie! Mister Browless went with the separate wing. He’s not coming!”

“A separate unit?”

“Mister Brown! Mister Brown! Do not go! Are you abandoning us!”

Lepanto cried and wept.

“S-suddenly-!”

There was sincerity in his voice.

Watching him act as if the other party was in front of him, he could tell at a glance.

‘This person was still at war.’

Twenty years ago, in the last war, Browless said that he acted like a detachment.

‘Is he affected by post-traumatic stress disorder?’

Post-traumatic stress disorder.

Leeha recalled the video he watched as educational material when he was in the military.


Those were the common symptoms of people who experienced terrible war.

‘The drinkers in the pub… ‘

Most of the people who started drinking before sundown were veterans… Was this what Middle Earth was talking about? Sadness before and after?

However, the present Leeha could not afford to think about such a thing.

If one had PTSD, listening to them was the first part of the treatment. It was likely to get worse if they were asked persistent or overbearing questions.

‘Has he been like that for 20 years?’

Leeha looked at Lepanto, the crazy beggar started to run again.

However, Leeha didn’t follow.

If he followed, there was a possibility of the door to his heart closing even more. First Leeha had to let the crazy beggar go.

‘I need to change my plans a little.’

It was after lunch the next day that Leeha appeared at Nitai.

It took him all night long to go outside the village to gather things for his new plan.

Leeha lit a fire and started cooking while squatting on an alley a little further from the center of the village.

Chiiik—.

He placed a small chunk of fat on a thin, flat stone to squeeze out its oil.

He loosely wiped off the stone plate and placed pieces of meat on it. Every time a piece or two were raised, the sound and smell spread in all directions.

It was not for sale, but Leeha began to carefully grill the meat.

“Gulp, gulp, what kind of smell is that?”

“Is that the smell of soup? Were there any restaurants nearby?”

“The restaurants are near the west entrance.”

The smell tickled the nose of the users. Of course, Leeha was not targeting the users.

“Hmm, hmmm, good, good. How fortunate that there are a lot of rabbits in the area.”

Leeha took a spoonful of soup and inspected its taste.

He used to mainly cook a lot of grilled dishes, but the soup was simple. Even more, he was a chef from ‘Holy Grill’.

『The succulent rabbit meat is ready.』

『Rabbit meat soup and diced potatoes are complete.』

“Hmm, good, good! As expected, it’s definitely easier after I have done it so many times.”

On his way to the capital alone, he had grilled dozens of bear steaks.

While traveling to and from Sheymoore, he sometimes made jerky using meat and ate it. Thanks to that, his cooking skill had already reached level 5.

‘Now, let the smell spread farther… The food people crave the most in the field is some meat that is oily. If Lepanto’s spirit is still on the battlefield… ‘

There was no way he would not take this bait. Moreover, since he was a beggar, he was susceptible to food.

‘If I can’t catch him, I will just make him come.’

When the second piece of meat was grilled to golden color, a shadow of a person was cast at the entrance of the alleyway.

“Gulp. Hihi, it smells delicious– ”

When the one-armed man with thick hair covering his face appeared, Leeha exclaimed inwardly.

“Does it smell good? I’m grilling for someone. Did you eat?”

“Gulp.”

The man approached with a wrinkled nose. He can’t seem to hear Leeha’s words.

“The meat is well cooked, slurp! Where did you get this meat?”

“Wait!”

“Ah-!”

Leeha slapped the beggar’s hand that was trying to pick up the meat.

The beggar was startled by that and took a step back.

Of course, one could tell just by looking at his behavior yesterday, but Leeha wanted to make sure.

“Not just anyone should eat this. What is your name?”

“Hihihi, don’t you know me? Squire! Bring me my rapier, and in the name of Lepanto, I will defeat the Demon King!”

As expected! As Leeha predicted, this person was Lepanto.

Leeha thought that Lepanto mistook him for his servant… If so, it was rather good.

“Eat this, Knight Lepanto-nim. I might have misunderstood for a moment.”

“Hihihi, you idiot, squire! There are still heaps of things to do in order to deal with the Demon King!”

Lepanto grabbed the meat and began to eat.

Leeha didn’t know if it was a symptom of severe PTSD or hallucination, but in any case, he barely managed to have a conversation.

If so, Leeha was confident.

‘Acting is a little difficult, but… ’

It was not like he would live with Lepanto for the rest of his life anyway.

Watching Lepanto eat the rabbit meat, Leeha grilled another piece of meat.

“Do you like it, knight-nim?”

“Of course, squire! Hihihi. I’m so excited, let’s get back to the battlefield!”

“Wait a moment, knight-nim. Wouldn’t it be dangerous to just go to the battlefield?”

“Then?”

“Why don’t we ask Mister Brown and Miss Elizabeth for help? If we had the two of them as sniper escorts, we could come back safely.”

“Stupid, stupid, stupid squire! Didn’t I tell you! The two of them are already gone.”

‘Gone?’

“T-that’s right! Both of them are already dead. Ehehe.”

Leeha lowered his head with a foolish smile, lepanto waved his hand in excitement.

“Hihihi, you idiot squire! They’re not dead! We can’t simply force them!”

“Where did they go?”

And Lepanto gestured to stand up again and stopped.

“They won’t come back.”

“Yes?”

Leeha couldn’t see Lepanto’s face with his head down.

“They made it clear, the next time we meet, we will be enemies. I couldn’t catch them either. No, I reported back in order to go catch them, but what came back was only rebuke and punishment. Because they couldn’t corrupt a national hero. I didn’t think about it either.”

‘Catch?’

Lepanto let out a quick mumble.

‘Besides, I don’t just know those two. It was the last time we had a conversation.’

‘He spoke to them directly! So, the fact that the two of them disappeared was really a cover-up of an incident at the national level?’

Does that mean that the heroes could not be made a traitor, and ended up being treated as disappeared? ‘No, looking at the rumors that they died, maybe… even that rumor was fabricated.’

“The traitors must be punished, squire! Hihihi, bring me my rapier!”

“Yes? Rapier?”

“What would I do without you squire? Hihihi.”

What did he mean? Just as he was trying to interpret Lepanto’s words, a notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『Escorting Veterans』

Description: The fencer, lepanto, lost his arm in the Second Human-Demon War. Follow his past and lead him to reality. If you escort him and find a way to face reality, his spirit might come back.

Condition: Finding Lepanto’s Rapier

Reward: Increase Lepanto’s intimacy

Increase Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution by 10

Condition for failure: Lepanto’s death Penalty for failure: The intimacy of all NPCs in Nitai will decrease by 50%,

Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution decreased by 30

—Do you want to accept?

‘Escort… ?’

Leeha scanned the notification window. Anyway, the content itself was finding the rapier. Where is it?

(To be continued…)
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‘Anyway, the word ‘escort’ is attached to it… It might be outside of town.

Is it in a region with a lot of monsters? But where?

‘And the failure condition is Lepanto’s death?’

If Lepanto dies, won’t Headmaster Browless’s quest also fail? If he died, he would no longer be able to acquire information.

‘And the public contribution would decrease by 30? In any case, Middle Earth…’

There were a lot of things he didn’t like, but he had no other option than to do it.

“I will cut down the head of Mister Brown, and Miss Elizabeth! Let’s go find them, squire!”

“Huh? Ohh? W-wait, Knight Lepanto-nim!”

Leeha could not calmly organize his thoughts. The one-armed man who had been wiping his oily hands on his clothes suddenly got up and started running.

In any case, Leeha found out that ‘Nitai’s Crazy Beggar’ was Lepanto.

Leeha also understood that Lepanto recognized him as his squire.

‘Does that mean I need to follow along like Lee Mongryong’s Bangja? Ugh, time flies while I’m doing this!’

Leeha had no information, and he couldn’t prepare either.

And right now, his only clue was this Crazy Lepanto.

Leeha quickly pressed the accept button and started running after him.

The crazy beggar ran with his bangs fluttering and escaped through Nitai’s south entrance.

“Knight Lepanto-nim! Where are you going?”


“I left my rapier behind! I have to go get my rapier!”

Lepanto looked back and cried out. Right, it is the same as the quest description up to this point.

What’s next?

“Where? Where are you going? Where did you leave your rapier?”

“Hehehe, you stupid squire! Where else would it be? Of course, it’s on the battlefield!”

“Battlefield? Shit!”

We’re heading to the Marching Plains? Outside the border? With this nutjob?

“Come on, squire! The slower we are, the more damage our allies receive!”

“Well, those allies are no longer there… I understand! I’m coming!”

What else could he do?

Leeha and Lepanto started running and left the village of Nitai.

Lepanto stopped after running for a while. Leeha stopped as well and opened his bag.

If they went straight to the battlefield like this, he had to check his item’s status. His musket was in excellent condition because he changed it before coming to Nitai. It was not the same for his armor. He had about 100 sets of gunpowder and ammunition.

‘Would this be enough for escorting?’

The biggest problem was Lepanto, which Leeha did not know where he would go.

The problem was, in addition to Lepanto getting up and acting suddenly, he also did not have any armor or weapon. If he made a mistake, lepanto could die in an instant.

And lastly, there was no information about the Marching Plains.

‘The place where the last war took place. The Human Alliance won, but they did not do any subjugations.’

It will not be a common field either. Leeha did not know what kind of monsters inhabit the place… He had a feeling that it would not be an easy task.

“The Demon King’s army is already gathered like this… Be careful, squire!”


“Knight Lepanto-nim! Walk slowly, I will lead the way.”

“That’s funny. Should a knight lag behind his squire? Ahahaha!”

Lepanto still took the lead.

He didn’t run, but his pace was still fast.

It was unavoidable.

‘My gahd… What kind of plains are these…

It’s definitely flat. It’s not a mountain.

However, the vast flat land was dyed with a black-Brown color and was extremely wide—

There seemed to be a few people hunting.

Since it was not a part of the map, its geography was not known, and only monsters roamed the plains, it was natural for Lepanto and Leeha to be nervous.

“Hmm, the Cursed Treants and Dark Fairy Legions.”

“A Cursed Treant?”

“Squire! Are your eyes blind! Can’t you see those trees walking around?”

Of course, Leeha knew it was a monster.

It was strange to see a walking tree. But Leeha did not know the name of that monster.

“Then, those insects flying around… ?”

“That’s right, they are Dark Fairies. They have some pretty annoying monsters. They are such a piece of work…”

Sparkling wings were reflected around the Cursed Treant.

Their distance from Leeha was about 70m. He could faintly sense that there was something there, but he could not know what they really were.

‘Can I hit them…? They are about the same size as Browless’s feather test.’


Creatures that were the size of a feather, that even had wings that could quickly change direction in midair… and at this distance?

Leeha shook his head. It was not a matter of can or cannot.

It was also important to know when something is impossible and find a different course of action. Just trying was not an answer.

‘Besides, lepanto does not even have a rapier. It would be better to turn bac-’

Most importantly, Leeha was not here to hunt.

Their main purpose was to find the rapier!

He had decided that it would be better to move around the monsters and take a detour towards the Marching Plains.

And Leeha would have acted on the plan…

If Lepanto hadn’t jumped out.

“This guy! I, lepanto the Skewer, will deal with you! Hahaha, bring me my rapier, squire! Ah, ohhh! You, you-”

Was he crazy? Leeha could not finish the sentence.

Grrrr—

Hiii— Human? Human?

It was because Lepanto was already discovered by one Cursed Ent and two Dark Fairies.

The Cursed Ent, a slow but tall tree monster. And even the Dark Fairies that were flying quickly.

“Hahaha! Go, get ready, squi-”

“Get out of the way, you crazy man!”

Leeha spat out a curse and pulled Lepanto’s shoulder.

How could they deal with three monsters that were 70m away and are already approaching? What was worse is, they don’t even know how strong the monsters are.

There was no time to think. Leeha quickly used his skill.

‘Damn it! This should be used sparingly!… Delicate Hand Technique!’

Leeha’s reload time will be fixed at 30 seconds for 5 minutes, but the cooldown time was a whopping 6 hours.

It was not an exaggeration to say that the Delicate Hand Technique should not have been used until the search for the rapier was over, however, it was an unavoidable situation.

‘It should be fine to search for the rapier slowly, the most important thing in this search is Lepanto’s safety.’

Because if the crazy beggar died, the quest would automatically fail.

Leeha quickly put his hand into the bag and took out a pouch of gunpowder. The sensation of his fingertips that were at the limits allowed him to accurately estimate the amount of gunpowder.

“Huu, huu…”

Two dark fairies approached them, messily stirring up the air.

Of course, they were fast and it was not easy to follow their movement. Leeha felt like crazy acrobatic choreography was going through his head.

‘They are fast! It’s hard to aim for their heads. It’s because of their size…’

I have to shoot as soon as I finish reloading! A loud gunshot resounded across the Marching Plains.

But the only thing that came next was the sound of bark getting smashed.

Grrrr—….

The Cursed Treant hesitated for a moment and started walking again.

‘…It’s thick! My bullet will not be able to pierce that tree.’

It meant that, even though Leeha changed his musket into the needle gun and his attack power increased by threefold, he was still not able to pierce the Ent.

What is the weakness of the tree? He couldn’t figure it out either.

Roots? But it’s walking with its roots.

Should I target the holes that look like eyes, nose, and mouth?

‘It’s too late.’

The fairy was already close. Leeha grabbed Lepanto’s armless sleeve and started running.

“Come here, Knight Lepanto-nim!”

“W-where are you going, squire! Those naughty bastards, I can take care of them with a single swing! ”

“You can’t do it right now because you don’t have your sword! Come quickly!”

“Hey, squire! Where did you put my sword?”

Is it not hallucination from PTSD? Is it dementia? Leeha forced his brain to work.

Hiii —- Humans! Don’t run! Don’t run!

“Stay with us fairies!”

The Dark Fairies’ voice echoed through the air.

However, the fluttering sound of gigantic blades that was enough to cover their voice sent chills to Leeha’s spine.

It was similar to the sound of dozens of wasps flying in the air.

“Squire! Let’s try something!”

“Knight Lepanto-nim, please don’t do anything rash!”

Lepanto realized that he did not have a sword, so he ran without arguing.

What should Leeha do now that he was not holding Lepanto? Of course, it’s to reload while running.

‘Okay, I should be able to reload in 30 seconds even while running.’

The skill ‘Delicate Hand Technique’ was definitely great. It would give a fixed reload time regardless if he was moving or stationary.

After he reloaded, he stopped and turned around.

As soon as he turned around he saw a worm. No, it was a fairy.

Hiiii–? Human, I will eat you!!

“What kind of fairy has a face like that?!”

The Dark Fairy that was 4 to 5 meters away opened its mouth.

With wings like a fly, black, flat body, and above all, a small face with crooked teeth, it looked more like a monster than a fairy.

The Dark Fairies instinctively performed an evasive maneuver.

They dodged creating the character 8! However, it was difficult for Leeha to miss at that distance.

‘I don’t even have to hit their body. I can see their trajectory…’

Baaang—-!

Ahhh!

The bullet hit one of the fairy’s wings. With the loss of one wing, the Dark Fairy crashed.

‘I will finish it later. I have to suppress them first! Still, it would be easier if fairies were like this.’

‘At the right time…’

It was only a matter of time. Another one flew towards them with the sound of its wing making Leeha’s hair stand up.

And Leeha moved as planned.

—Humans!!

He did not miss it.

“Bayonet Charge!”

The muzzle of the needle gun extended. And a mana bayonet appeared beneath it.

It was difficult to dodge a bayonet that appeared at the right time. The body of the Dark Fairy that came rushing was pierced by Leeha’s bayonet.

Gaah!

The Dark fairy, with black smoke spewing out of its pierced body, suddenly turned gray.

Looking at the size of the Dark Fairies, Leeha was able to estimate their approximate health.

‘It’s 1/3 of my attack power, but with this alone, the Dark Fairy can be dealt with. I will clean up the one that’s left.’

There was a wingless bug floundering on the floor.

It was the first time Leeha saw the monster, but since Middle Earth was ‘realistic’, he was able to come up with a countermeasure to deal with them.

Leeha easily shoved the Dark Fairy and started reloading.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha must have looked like a skillful fairy hunter.

“T-that was great, squire! When so skillful? Hehe, with your skills the musket, you could be a musketeer commander!”

“Thank you, but I will have to decline.”

In the meantime, Leeha continued reloading his musket.

ent who slowly was about 10 meters away.

“Hurry up, lepanto-nim!”

Taaang!

The bullet the knothole of the ent.

The rustling and ripping of the bark could be heard, but that was all.

The tree was walking promptly using its roots as legs.

Kururuk–…….

He wanted to away, but he did not have the skill to do that.

In order to make the most use of the delicate hand technique, Leeha continued to reload.

The giant tree finally collapsed after one, two, and three shots.

“Phew……. Tsk.”

Did it have the highest health and defense among the monsters I have faced so far?

‘Except for field bosses, it has the strongest defense among the normal monsters.’

It was a monster that needed to be whopping 5 times with Leeha’s current attack power…….

“That was great! How were you able to deal with an ent so easily by yourself”


“Easily……?”

Leeha sighed when Lepanto raised his voice.

He might die if it’s like this……. It was easy to say.

“Of course! Seven trained soldiers must join forces! Even when an archer’s Fire Arrows are included! Ahahaha, I got a good seed here!”

Does that mean that you knew it was such a monster, and you still went ahead and its aggro? With no sword, no shield, and no armor?

“Lepanto-nim.”

“Yes?”

Leeha thought that he should use this opportunity to make things clear.

He was able to deal with the fairies easily because of the Delicate Hand Technique. What if it happened again?

“Never. Never run towards monsters.”

“Why shouldn’t-”

“Shhhh! This is our mission! Shouldn’t Lepanto-nim and I find the Knight’s Sword and defeat the pieces of the demon king? Avoiding the detection of the monsters is also a strategy!”

Leeha lowered his head and said strongly. Of course, it was bullshit.

“Hmm…… right. It makes sense, squire.”

“Yes. If we report to the regimental commander, he will be very pleased.”

“Right! Good. Let’s move quietly, hehe.”

Phew……. Leeha let out a sigh.

Lepanto bent down his waist and began to move.

“Stop.”

“What is it, squire?”


“There are two ents and three fairies. It would be better if we wait here.”

Following Leeha’s movements, lepanto also went into the pit.

Leeha and looked around.

They were in a reddish-Brown wasteland. The plain that came into view was a long drought-scorched land that was cracked and split.

‘Is it because of the war?’ There were several small forests, but it was difficult for them to hide in .

The forest was the ents’ territory. It could be said that it was the place where cursed ents were born.

“By the way, do you know where the Rapier is?”

“Hahaha, of course not! I do not know where my sword is!”

After all that happened, why did the person who knew well that there are a lot of monsters come “I feel it! Hahaha, my sword is crying alone on the battlefield.”

“Ah, yes.”

It was annoying, but there’s no other method anyway.

Above all, it was unavoidable to follow Lepanto wherever he wanted to go.

“Turn a little to the right like this and wait behind me. When I give you the signal, run up to the hill in front of you and do not look at the monster.”

“Is it necessary? I could cut down as many ents as I want!”

Ah, yes. You would. But you don’t have a sword. I think I have told you this more than five times already.”

Leeha had barely resisted the desire to strangle the beggar with long hair in front of him.

“Get ready.”

Leeha fixed his eyes to the monster and waved his hand.

Fortunately, lepanto carried out Leeha’s orders without hesitation.

The moment Leeha was about to move!


“Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Who’s there!”

A voice suddenly called out to Leeha and he shouted in a fluster.

A familiar yet non-human voice! Who came while he was looking at the monsters.

“Wow! S-squire! My sword! Give me my sword!”

Lepanto saw it and roared.

“No, you don’t have a sword, so why do you keep……”

“Kikiki, Ha Leeha-nim! Why are you upset?”

A head stuck out from the bush Leeha’s right .

A dark-green face that stood out more in the dark Brown wasteland. Even the teeth were revealed everytime he smiled.

“Oh?”

“A lizard Mage? Hurry up, squire!”

“Ah, lepanto-nim, wait a minute!”

After holding down the struggling crazy beggar, only then was he able to smile a little.

The person who appeared was a person he knew, no, it was a Lizardia he knew.

“……Biyemi-nim?”

“Kiki, it’s been a while.”

The Venomancer Biyemi. It was Biyemi who went with him on the Golden Eagle quest at Candle Castle.

“How is Biyemi-nim here……?”

“I was hunting.”

“Hunting? Here?”

“Well, there were some circumstances. That’s how it happened. Kikiki.”

Leeha looked at Biyemi who was smiling awkwardly.

Like human mages wearing robes, Biyemi seemed to be wearing cloth armor, but it wasn’t showing much.

He had a light cloth protector that wrapped around the and . And there were similar pieces of fabric covering important areas like underwear.

However, the only difference from Candle Castle was the complex patterns that were engraved.

‘Even if he changed his items, he is hunting alone here?’

was not Candle Castle. Leeha had now experienced Middle Earth’s system.

It was a difficult hunting ground for Leeha, who has grown so much that it even surprised Kijung, a semi-ranker in Korea.

How about Biyemi……?

“Ha Leeha-nim, what’s wrong with you?”

“I-I have some troubles. Haha, I was doing a quest.”

“Phew, are you working with him? lizard Arani! Awesome!”

“Kikiki, it’s a quest.”

Biyemi looked at Lepanto with a strange smile.

He immediately knew that this crazy person was an NPC, and that it was a quest related to this NPC.

“But how did Biyemi-nim come all the way here to hunt? Did you level up a lot?”

“Kikiki, that’s right. It’s because our race is so conspicuous. Isn’t Ha Leeha-nim really cool? Is that a boss field item?”

“Yes, I picked it up.”

“What a nonsensical joke. Kikiki, there’s no way you can pick up something like this.”

Biyemi certainly quickly grasped Leeha.

It was not an exaggeration to say that they lived and died together, and the two knew each other.

‘It’s like realizing that this is a field boss item, no matter race gets people’s attention, it’s a little strange to go out to the border of Fibiel Kingdom to hunt.’

Is what Leeha thought.

Venom Mage Academy was located in the northeast of Tamba Jungle and Aelstock, the capitalnd he is here?

‘Southwest, that was out of the border. When we separated, we went almost completely the opposite way, so why did he come all the way here?’

He was glad that he was ahead, but he was worried.

Come to think of it, Biyemi was always the one who didn’t give answers straightforwardly.

When Leeha asked a question, he always answered by giving him sneak peeks similar to hints.

“Then would you like to come with us?”

Nevertheless, Leeha proposed a party.

Biyemi gave a slightly flustered expression on his face.

“Party?”

“It doesn’t matter if you can hunt alone, but it’s good to hunt together after meeting, right?”

“Kiki, Ha Leeha-nim wants help in clearing the quest, right?”

“Yes, thanks in advance.”

Biyemi looked around while talking to Leeha.

“It’s good, but…… Actually……

“What is it?”

“It’s difficult to say. Still…… Nothing should happen now. So, shall we do it together? Kiki. I wonder what kind of quest it is.”

Biyemi looked at Lepanto curiously.

“Hmmm, lepanto-nim? Can we go with this Lizardia?”

“Of course! lizard Warriors and lizard Mages are one of the strongest soldiers in the Demon King’s army! If he is on our side, I could not ask for more!”

“Eh? What Demon King is he talking about?”

Biyemi tilted his head.

“This NPC is a little……. . Then let’s go. There are a lot of monsters over there, so we need to be careful.”

Leeha created a party with Biyemi. How much changed since they separated from Candle Castle?

The Lizardia walked out of Leeha’s sight, who was making plans with anticipation.

Biyemi walked towards two cursed ents and three dark fairies.

“Bi-Biyemi-nim! Why did you leave just like that?”

“Please prepare, Ha Leeha-nim.”

‘Are you crazy?’

Leeha struggled to hold back the words he wanted to shout.

“Wait! What are you going to do?”

“Ha Leeha-nim, please take care of the ents.”

The Lizardia Venomancer walked without hesitation.

The mage intentionally reduced the distance from the enemy. That alone was incomprehensible.

But there was something surprising. Even though Biyemi was moving, green particles began to gather in his body.

‘Move-casting!’

Leeha’s eyes widened for a moment, but there was no time to admire.

Reload start.

“S-Squire! That Lizardia said-”

“Lepanto-nim, please stay back!”

It was time to reload and shoot. 47 seconds? 48 seconds? Meanwhile, Biyemi finished casting.

Hii– It’s been a while since we saw a lizard, right?

It a long time since we a lizard.

Even when the dark fairies came close with threatening flapping sounds, Biyemi remained still.

‘He wanted me to take care of the ents? What is he going to do with the fairies?’

Damn it. Should I target the fairies first?

However, Leeha did not aim his gun at the fairies.

I was wary because this is where we met after a long time, but it isn’t like we did not go through difficulties together. Leeha trusted Biyemi and waited.

(To be continued…)
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The dark fairies moved and began an evasive maneuver. Three flying bugs wildly through the air. It was difficult to shoot them.

When Leeha bit his lips, Biyemi looked at Leeha and smiled.

“Biye-”

“Poison Breath.”

Puuu…….

“-mi-nim! Quickly! Dark Fai….ries…… are coming.”

A dark fairy dived in with the intent of scratching the momentum to grab the lizard’s scales. That huge flying insect-like monster fell to the floor. It was as weak as a mosquito hit by pesticide!

‘What? What the heck?’

Skill? Magic?

What Biyemi did was simply exhale into the air.

It was not the same as the poison spit he used before. He only breathed out, but the dark fairy…….

“Ha Leeha-nim! What are you staring at!”

“Ah, yes.”

Leeha quickly pulled his index finger.

There were still two cursed ents left.

Although their strides were large, they were still slow and unable to keep up with Leeha, lepanto or Biyemi.

In other words, what if there were no dark fairies?

In front of a musketeer that could reload while moving, they were easy pickings.


“Poison Spit!”

The lizard’s cheeks seemed to inflate like a balloon in a moment and spat out! The concentrated venom was shot .

It was a magic cast that he could not get used to even after seeing it a couple of times, but its lethality was enormous.

No, it felt like the range was much longer than in the past, so the damage must have been greatly increased.

‘Three shots…… does that one magic have the power oftwo shots?’

The ent that only died after Leeha’s five attacks, collapsed after only three shots.

The same goes for the guy next to him.

It only took 6 minutes or so for the two cursed ents and three dark fairies to all turn gray.

“Hahaha, that was awesome! This Lizardia will definitely be a great help to our allies!”

Lepanto wiggled his sleeves loosely his curiosity grew bigger.

“Phew, Ha Leeha-nim you have gotten really strong, haven’t you? I thought it would take a while for the cursed ent to die. Are you around level 60 already?”

“Huh? Ah, no. How did Biyemi-nim catch the dark fairy?”

His attack power was close to level 60, maybe more, but Leeha did not tell.

“Kiki, it’s poison, poison. A venomancer deals with poison.”

Right, he clearly it. It was Poison Breath.

“This does not work for Human Venomancers. Poison Breath adds additional attack power for the Lizardia race and is fatal to small creatures such as fairies. The more it moves, the worse it gets. Because the poison that was spread through the air is inhaled much faster. Kiki, how can their little bodies hold up?”

“Ah! Amazing.”

“Yeah. But that’s all it is good at…… if it’s a medium-sized monster, it won’t work as much. Kiki.”

The lizard’s long fingers drew a V shape. He also said that there was also the Lizardia’s Poison Resistance…….

‘It’s still great. Skills and information.’


I was already surprised before, but now, I am .

After hearing Biyemi’s words, Leeha tried to find out more information about it.

However, no matter how hard he searched over the internet, he couldn’t find such information.

‘But why is he telling me all these things?’

Even better and more detailed information than last time….

“Biyemi-nim.”

“Yes?”

“What level are you?”

“Kiki, why do you keep asking? It is embarrassing.”

“It’s kind of weird. No matter how the Lizardia race gains additional attack power to Poison Breath, the fact that the dark fairies died in “one-shot”…… Although we don’t know their levels, they are monsters that spawn with the cursed ent…”

If the dark fairy traveled together with the cursed ents that could withstand 5 or more of Leeha’s attacks, it was safe to assume that they were high leveled. They probably have low health and high attack power. So far, that was what Leeha could infer.

‘But no matter how low their stamina was……’

It that the Poison Breath has the same damage as Leeha’s shots.

Besides, if all three of them died at the same time, it meant that it was an area of effect magic.

Did it mean that Leeha’s attack and Biyemi’s magic have the same destructive power that was equivalent to level 60 or higher?

“Ha Leeha-nim as well, killed the Golden Eagle in one shot.”

“T-that……”

“Kiki, you just need to know that it is the same principle. Still, if you’re curious about the level…”

Instakill judgment?

“I wonder.”


“It’s not something I can’t tell you.”

Just say it! What the hell are you waiting for?

Leeha got to level 32 because he all the experience from the field boss, Brown Bear, and sniped Hijuit-ka. There was no way ordinary users could such an .

If one caught bats and spiders as quickly as Leeha did, it might have been enough to go to the bear’s hunting ground.

‘About level 25? But how could a level 25 produce that kind of attack power?’

It was an assumption that holds true for Leeha but not for others.

Leeha’s question was answered more easily than expected.

“It’s 51. Kiki.”

“What?”

Biyemi was smiling.

“Your level 51? Have you been hunting that much since we separated?”

They went their own ways at level 12. Since then, Leeha’s level had grown by 20.

But Biyemi was faster than him? And close to 20 levels?

“I did not do any quest and focused on leveling. Kiki.”

“No way! No, that’s absurd. Isn’t that faster than the tankers, when Middle Earth opened… Is it possible to be that fast?”

“That’s right, it’s possible. If you know where to hunt. How to hunt. Knowing two things was enough. Kiki.”

Leeha was more perplexed with Biyemi’s dignified attitude.

Even if one knows where and how to hunt, different people will get different results even if the same amount of time was spent on it.

One needs to combine their skills with the most efficient hunting ground.

‘That’s already a hint. It meant that Biyemi did not hunt in a generally known hunting ground.’

A place where no people, a lot of experience, and monsters are weak to poison.

It should be taken that way.

‘That’s good information! There is too much information I don’t know.’

Leeha could not understand Biyemi’s intention. But his strength was real. The quest was not easy, but if he was with Biyemi……?

‘I could complete the quest and level up at the same time.’

Leeha smiled.

“Lepanto-nim? Which way should we go?”

“Hahaha, good! This way! This way!”

Lepanto ran excitedly…. To the place where cursed ent and dark fairies were located.

“Biyemi-nim, please!”

“Yes! Ha Leeha-nim as well, please aim for the ent!”

Leeha would be able to experience for a while.

『You leveled up.』

“Kiki, congratulations!”

“Phew, I’m sure your experience points up as well.”

He reached level 33. One could tell just by looking at the rate at which his experience points increase hat this was not a place for level 30-40 users.

Biyemi and Ha Leeha, who were time in such a place, close to .

“Hmm……”

“How are you, lepanto-nim?”

Lepanto was squatting beside the fallen ent’s corpse, fiddling with the ground.

Assuming that he could feel where his rapier is…….

It had been already 2 hours since they wandered around the Marching Plains. Of course, they were delayed because they hunted monsters.

“Here……”

“Yes?”

There was no laughter in Lepanto’s voice. Leeha immediately noticed that his mood had changed.

“This is where my colleagues were. The deployed soldiers belonged to the 7th armored infantry division of the 3rd ……”

Lepanto’s touch was delicate as he swept and touched the barren land of the wasteland.

It’s as if this place is the grave of his colleagues.

“While they put up the barriers, we charged. 76th Assault Regiment of the 3rd . In front of that, kuheuk.”

“Lepanto-nim……?”

“Kiki, isn’t this dangerous? The NPC’s attitude suddenly changed?”

As Lepanto collapsed, clutching his head, Biyemi who was quietly listening next to him, blew a whistle.

This was a completely different attitude to Leeha who was worried about Lepanto.

“Lepanto-nim?”

“Haa.. more ahead.. you’ll be ahead. I feel it.”

Lepanto groaned and stood up.

Something definitely changed.

“Are your memories coming back? No, rather, seeing the wreckage of the battlefield, will be able to shake off the hallucination of PTSD?”

‘The NPC who still thought it was the middle of the second Human-Demon War accepting that the war is over.’

Lepanto moved forward slowly.

Leeha moved cautiously while supporting him, and Biyemi walked indifferently from a distance.

In fact, Biyemi was more interested in looking around.

“Oh? Ha Leeha-nim? I don’t think we should go there…… there’s undead over there. My magic hardly works on them.”

“Undead?”

“Skeletons. Zombies are fine, but I can’t poison bones. I think it would be better not to go.”

Biyemi shook his head and looked ahead.

The land began to change from a wasteland to a darker color. The deepest place in the Marching Plains. A large-scale battlefield in the second Human-Demon War.

But Lepanto headed towards it, and Leeha couldn’t get away from him.

“But the quest……”

“Kiki, right? We can’t help it. If it’s dangerous, let’s run away immediately.”

The party moved forward slowly Lepanto’s . Leeha felt intuitive.

The search for the rapier is almost over.

About twenty minutes after entering the center of the Plain where undead appeared, lepanto, who was walking silently, pointed.

“See…… Squire, I can see my sword.”

“You can see it? Where? Where?”

But his eyes did not catch anything. Only barren land.

“Here…… Here. On the day of the victory, I saw two people leaving the camp here……”

“Are you two leaving?”

“With the support of those two, the 76th Assault regiment was able to come this far. All I had to do was watch them leave.”

He could tell without mentioning it.

Do you remember the day that ‘Mister Brown and Miss Elizabeth’ left?

He couldn’t see Lepanto’s eyes because of his bangs, but the way he recalled the past seem to be ‘that day’.

“It looks like some kind of story quest.”

“Ah, yes. It’s a musketeer quest.”

Biyemi looked at Lepanto with an uninterested attitude.

A person who all kinds of information doesn’t know the keywords about the second Human-Demon War.

(To be continued…)
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“Did you try to.. stop it? Did you stop? ……The report. Report? Did you report it?”

“Lepanto-nim?”

“Report- ah? Magic? Who?”

“Lepanto-nim?”

“Kuoooot, kuwaak!”

Lepanto grabbed his head and began to roll on the ground.

“Lepanto-nim! Lepanto-nim!”

“Ha-Ha Leeha-nim! Be quiet!”

“Lepanto-nim! Calm down! Why are you like that all of a sudden?”

He had no healing potion. No magic either. He was only able to help stabilize his posture.

However, his help didn’t do anything. Lepanto still down on the floor in pain.

“Ah, please be quiet! Now!”

“I also want to, but this person-”

“Quiet! Please stop making a fuss……!”

“Biyemi-nim?”

Biyemi suddenly stopped talking. Leeha, who was examining Lepanto’s condition, hurriedly raised his head.

The lizard’s .

“Damn it! They’re here. That’s why I told you to be quiet……


“Why?”

Kikik, tudududeuk.

“I told you, this is where the undead spawn! In other words, this is a grave! Monsters don’t usually appear here!”

The ground began shaking.

“But when they hear human ……

Pak, pak, papaak—!

Hands and heads began to pop out of the ground. Undead monsters with only rotten flesh and bones left.

Souls that were not able to find rest came out to roam the earth.

“I knew this would happen!”

“That!”

It was the same for Leeha.

Somehow, he did not see the undead hunting ground. Was it because they underground before Besides, there were not many.

‘Three skeletons and five zombies. That’s a lot. They are 20m away, that’s close.’

Leeha already started reloading. He had about 30 sets of gunpowder and bullets left. Did I use too much while catching ents? As expected, I should have stopped by the bank. They suddenly started targeting Lepanto.

‘Oh no. I forgot to prepare properly. I should have brought 200 sets.’

It was already too late.

“Lepanto-nim! Wake up! The demon king’s army has appeared!”

“Kuuoooo..”

Lepanto did not wake up.

“You have to run, there are eight of them! Ha Leeha-nim! The worst part is, three of them are skeletons-”


Taaang—!

The needle gun spat out a bullet. The skull of the skeleton that had just lifted its waist from the ground was smashed. It was also in one shot. Even the undead could not move without its head, no matter how tough it was.

“……That was awesome.”

“I’ll take care of the skeletons, so please take care of the others! Don’t think of killing it in one shot, slow it down, or aim for its legs!”

“Cut off?”

“Legs! Disabling their thighs or shins will reduce mobility! What’s more, if it’s a zombie, wouldn’t its skin be rotten here and there? Just aim for those areas!”

Biyemi looked at Leeha with a surprised expression.

However, Leeha did not have time to look at the surprised lizard’s face.

He was already reloading his second shot.

“How do you……? Forget it, is it true?”

“Do you think I have time to ? Quick! don’t have time!”

“Ah, I understand. The legs, is it?”

It was fortunate that the monsters took time to get out of the ground.

Of course, although they couldn’t get away from the undead completely, least he was able to buy time for reloading and casting.

“Poison Spit”

Huuup, hat! The concentrated venom hit the zombie’s knees.

As soon as the knee joint, which already had no flesh and was only bones, broke, the zombie fell.

“Kuooo–”

When the left knee was bent abnormally, the zombie had no choice but to fall.

Biyemi regained his composure as he saw the monster groaning and trying to get up again.


“Naisu! It was really unable to move?”

“Hurry up if you have time to talk-”

Taaang—.

In the meantime, Leeha’s index finger pressed the trigger.

“-I will clean them up!”

However, the area he shot was the collar bone.

It was brittle, and the bone broke, however, the skeleton had a nonchalant expression.

It was difficult to find the expression on its skull, that was cracking its chin. At least, it was known that the reaction speed of the skeleton was quite good.

“Damn it, if you miss like that……”

“Report…… I? Who? Roz…… ak? Mage?”

“Lepanto-nim! Get up now!”

Leeha shouted, but Lepanto was still sitting down and muttering.

A long saliva hung under his chin as one could see, his eyes were not sane.

A group of undead approach Lepanto, Leeha and Biyemi.

The monster that appeared 20 meters away began to close its distance.

“Too too many! What should we do?”

“Damn, wait- one more step!”

Leeha pulled the trigger again. Kaang—!

However, the only sound that followed was a powerful metallic sound.

“Did they stop it?”

“Kikiki—.”

As the skeleton jumped out of the ground, it was holding a rusty sword and shield.

No matter how large the shield was, he was shot there? Did he raise his shield knowing that Leeha was aiming for the head?

‘Intelligent? How high could the intelligence of a bastard with nothing but bones be?’

Leeha tried to reload quickly, but the undead closed their gap.

“Poison Spit!”

Another zombie’s thigh corroded.

–Taang! The zombies weren’t able to stand once they fell and they could only crawl with both hands. The speed of the zombies walking normally was also not on the slow side.

How about the skeleton?

‘Reload……’

42, 43, 44, tap! The remaining distance from the skeleton was 13 meters.

Leeha’s body first.

“Ha-Ha Leeha-nim?”

“I can’t help! Please keep the zombies busy!”

A musketeer rushing to the enemy? Biyemi looked at him with a serious expression.

‘I can’t help it because of the shield!’

Believe. Trust your movements. Trust on the 50% assimilation rate and 350 agility.

Although the undead was a high-class monster, as long as they were humanoid, they have the same weakness.

“Kki kki kki kki—!”

Did it hear the sound of Leeha approaching?

It lowered its shield. When the red light flashed in its eyeless eye holes, the skeleton drew his sword.

“Heuup!”

When he thought he saw him wielding a sword that was already brushing against the Agonia Oso’s coat

skeleton’s done at a tremendous speed, he barely twisted his body.

“Kkeuk!”

But he definitely felt it.

He twisted his body, but his stomach was clearly scratched. He felt a warm stinging sensation on his stomach as if a thin cloth had been .

‘It hurts more I thought!’

It may be less than the real thing, but the assimilation rate was still 50%. The pain the weapon had scratched could never be light.

“But!”

the direction of the right arm of the skeleton holding a sword, his legs twisted and .

It was physically impossible to block the right side of the with the shield on the left hand.

“You brainless, skeleton bastard!”

Taaang—!

The skeleton turned its head, but it was already too late. The iron bullet had already completely pierced its forehead and smashed its head.

The red light disappeared from its eyes, and the human skull collapsed vertically.

“Bayonet charge!”

At the same time, he crouched as soon as he got up.

Another skeleton quickly raised its shield to block it. It was a rusty shield, but it was able to stop it.

It was an undead that was not pushed by the bayonet a single inch, but Leeha did not panic.

Because a bayonet had 17 connected actions.

“Hit it! Get out of the way and stab it right! !”

Kaang, kaang, kang!

When Leeha showed his bayonet technique successively, the skeleton to defen. There was no room for counterattacks in the movement of the bayonet flowed naturally like water.

However, the attack was not successful

Leeha also did not expect the bayonet to work in the first place.

It was just to buy time and space.

Leeha strongly kicked the shield.

Paak-!

As the skeleton retreated, Leeha quickly reloaded.

“Clack clack clack”

The skeleton was very vigilant with the bayonet technique.

The skeleton slowly raised its shield and started to circle the area .

It was definitely the movement of a skilled warrior.

‘If it was the undead coming out of here…… of course, they would be the casualties of the second Human-Demon war.’

They were the soldiers 20 years ago.

The thought appeared in Leeha’s head for a moment.

However, such sentimental thoughts should be put to rest for a while.

Talgak-!

He finished reloading by tapping the butt of his musket with a strong force.

It over now.

“What kind of musketeer is ……”

Biyemi watched Leeha’s struggle.

Even with five zombies approaching, he was only concerned about Leeha.

Leeha’s movements were ‘beautiful and perfect’.

All his movements were neat.

‘Did he say he was level 30? How did he get strong so fast? Is he really a beginner? He had field boss items as well. What quest is he doing now? This…… Maybe it had something to do with the main quest line? Ah, no. Only…… There was no way a level 30 could receive such a thing.’

It was also why Biyemi was in a hurry to level up.

While Leeha was casting the 17th round of bayonet, Biyemi pulled out a small dagger.

The dark green dagger had red energy at its tip.

“Poison Spit!”

Twe, Biyemi spat out poison at the dagger and . The dark green black face flashed for a moment.

“Oooh-!”

“Where are the zombies?”

The zombie swung its claws, but the Venom Mage’s movements were agile.

If other mages saw it, they would ask if he put most of his into agility.

He used his tail to knock down the zombies and cut chest clean with dagger.

To the zombie that attacked as if wanting to hug him, he bowed down and dug and cut off its armpits.

As if Biyemi was not a Lizardia user, but the Lizardia race itself, he was already accustomed to using the backside including the tail.

“Kikit.”

By rotating his body and scratching his dagger, he succeeded in attacking even the last zombie.

The dagger swung once for each zombie.

Biyemi only swung it five times to kill five zombies.

Even so, the zombies started to tremble and collapse without even making a moan.

“Ha Leeha-nim! It’s finished!”

Taaang—!

A gunshot erupted in response to Biyemi’s call.

(To be continued…)
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“Phew, I’m done with the skeletons. Have you caught all the zombies already?”

“Wow, you were really able to do it? If things got dangerous, we could have just run away. Kikit.”

The dagger was no longer visible in the Lizardia’s hand.

“Uh, don’t say that. It would have been difficult without Biyemi-nim.”

“Is it because of that NPC?”

“Yes. Because of the quest failure condition……. It would be over if he dies.”

“Hmm. I see. We would need to wait until he his senses, right?”

Biyemi asked while nodding his head.

“Well. That is a concern.”

Leeha also felt that the quest had progressed considerably.

He didn’t know alone… but it seemed was slowly regaining his memories.

‘But should we keep waiting here?’

It was a very dangerous situation. He only had a few sets of gunpowder left and once more undead pop out, it would all used up.

‘If more come out, we will be in trouble……

At least, Leeha thought that this place was not something that two people in their 30s and 50s can survive.

At that moment, lepanto began to come back to his senses.

“I…… am? Who am I? After seeing, I——!”

“L-Lepanto-nim?”


Lepanto, who had been muttering, grabbed his head again.

Please don’t make a mess this time!

“Please, sh-shut your mouth!”

Even though Leeha tried to stop him, lepanto continued to struggle.

He shut his mouth so tightly that Leeha could hear Lepanto’s teeth snapping and grinding.

“A-a-a-ah, aaah- ”

“Huh?”

Lepanto screamed and lost consciousness.

“Uh, lepanto-nim! Lepanto-nim!”

Did he die? Isn’t that absurd? Leeha put his hand under Lepanto’s nose. I don’t know if this will work in games too.

‘Please breath.’

Warm air came out of Lepanto’s nose.

“What happened?”

“I don’t know. But, it seems he’s alive.”

Leeha dropped his shoulder, and Biyemi sighed. An NPC that passed out in a dangerous area.

“Will you stay here?”

“W-well, it looks like the quest is almost over, so I would like to ask for your help a little bit more.

‘

It was a selfish thought, but Biyemi was the only person he could ask for help.

“Okay, I will help you for now. If Leeha-nim is asking for help, then I should help. By the way, I want to ask you something. Is that okay? Kikit.”


“What is it?”

Biyemi was asking in a roundabout way.

The lizard’s face approached and tried to whisper something into Leeha’s ear. as if he was afraid that someone could hear him.

“I-”

“Huh, people?”

As soon as Biyemi was about to speak, Leeha opened his mouth. There were some shadows behind Biyemi.

“What?”

“Are there people coming here?”

There was still quite a distance behind Biyemi’s back, but a group of shimmering shadows began to grow larger.

“Ara? This is an unpopular hunting ground, so no one comes- oh!”

“Why?”

“Damn it!……. Leeha-nim, please run away- No, you can’t run away because of that NPC.”

“Why is that, Biyemi-nim?”

The people were getting closer.

Four…… No, five. Six. Six people. They looked like users, but why did Biyemi frown?

“This…… Things could get difficult, so I think you should prepare? I don’t think I can even take care of Hali-Hali-nim.”

Difficult? However, Leeha did not ask.

First of all, if Biyemi was nervous, it certainly wouldn’t be normal.

Even after a minute or so of reloading, when a little more time passed, he was able to properly see the people approaching them.

People Leeha knew.


No, he wasn’t familiar with their faces or nicknames, but he at least knew where they belonged.

An image was drawn on their shield and armor. If the symbol was of a yellow rising sun….

“Rising Sun.”

Why are these bastards here? Are they here to take revenge because of what happened on Sheymoore Mountain? Is it because I killed their guild members in the Kobold Village?

‘Right, tikal or Nabal made a fuss about revenge, but it’s not time for them to connect yet? Did they contact their guildmates offline?’

The organization doesn’t seem to be that strong.

So what happened?

How did the Rising Sun know that I was here?

“Ara? Kikit, hali-Hali-nim knows the Rising Sun too?”

“Yes?”

Too?

“Well, you might know them because they are famous…. Phew, the reason I have come this far-”

“Hey, you lizard bastard`!! Did you think that we wouldn’t be able to chase you, if you go outside the border!!!!!”

“It’s because of those guys.”

Even if he didn’t listen to Biyemi, he could tell.

The reason Biyemi came here, and the reason why he was embarrassed a while ago.

“Did you have a conflict with Rising Sun?”

“I don’t know. They tried to extort an item from me, and I killed a few of their members, and they chased after me at every hunting ground and disturbed me.”

“What item did they want?”

“It’s an item used by a Venomancer, but it’s not a big deal.”

Biyemi sighed as if he was already used to it.

But, he had a serious look. Even for Leeha, the Rising Sun’s level seemed high.

They should be at least level 60.

‘If it’s an item that could make high levels come, it’s probably not a normal item.’

They even came for Agonia Oso’s items. The item that Biyemi didn’t would be at least at that level.

“Ha, you snake bastard. You had a colleague? So you thought you could defeat us?”

“Give me your dagger while we are still asking nicely, you bastard.”

Dagger? Leeha glanced at Biyemi. But, I didn’t see a dagger?

“Hyung-nim, are you going to give it to me? The guy next to him also looks good with his armor.”

“Alright. If I get both, would I get another armband?”

The crew of the Rising Sun began to slowly spread out.

It was to surround Leeha, Biyemi and Lepanto who was lying on the ground.

“You know that you won’t be able to run away, right? And that killing outside the border doesn’t raise one’s chaotic level? Do you want to be leveled down when you die or just give up?”

One of the Rising Sun members tore a scroll.

“Kikit, block teleport and return. I think they sent some high-level guys this time.”

Although the scroll was a level lower than the ‘Dimension Lock’ that Sage Hyein used, it still was an excellent escape prevention technique at their level.

“Ha, of course, you bastard. If you are in your 40s or 50s, wouldn’t it be right to send those who are in their 60s?”

Biyemi’s expression, , distorted.

‘6 people at level 60.’

Leeha also faced the Rising Sun, but at that time, he fought using the terrain and monsters in the Kobold Village.

Guerilla tactics and head-on collisions are completely different.

‘We’re definitely at a disadvantage here. Neither number nor level…… We aren’t even able to run away because of Lepanto.’

Of course, I have to help Biyemi, but can we win this fight?

-Hali-Hali-nim, can I ask you to attack first?

-Aren’t they the ones who will give up items anyway?

-What? Did you know? Kiki. I’m sorry, because of me…….

-You have helped me get here. Instead, can I ask you a favor later?

-Kikkit, let’s turn things upside down. Okay.

Biyemi and Leeha talked using the party chat while looking at the enemies

.

Maybe because they were a party organized to catch a mage, all of them were melee dealers.

‘Leeha, concentrate. You only need to catch six.’

Hereafter, it was only natural that he must and protect Lepanto.

First of all, they should not be allowed to get close to a mage, like Biyemi.

“You need to choose quickly! Are you going to give me dagger or die? We have already sent our members to the nearby village! No matter how many times we log in again- euhk！”

Taaang—!

Leeha did not need to use Calm Mind in this situation.

Hitting his target was a breeze.

‘One.’

As if he had already won, the head of the foolish.

“Oh? Ohh? Hyung-Hyung-nim! Hyingnim!”

“Naisu! Poison Spit!”

Kaaaahk, twooo!

With Leeha’s lead, Biyemi ran out.

A series of poison spits with an extremely short casting time.

One guild member of Rising Sun, who lost their leader, was poisoned.

“Kehak- Poison- Why is it so strong!- Kahak, detox-”

These guys came knowing that they would be dealing with a poison mage. There was no way they hadn’t prepared a detox poison. They just overlooked the fact that he was not an ordinary poison magician.

They the body of the guy, who was rushing to get the green bottle, harden, and then it turned gray.

‘Two!’

Now there were only four left.

“K-kill! Kill them!”

“What is that gunslinger bastard?”

“Kill them! These guys! Run!” Pung–!

The warrior, who kicked the ground and narrowed the distance in an instant, wielded his sword.

Leeha also ran backward quickly, but it was not enough, and the warrior’s sword slashed across his shoulder.

“Keuk, bayonet Charge!”

He used Bayonet Charge, but there was no way it would be effective against a full-fledged warrior. In addition, they were higher level than Leeha, so there was no way his attack would work in the first place.

Leeha attacked, but after that, he continued to defend.

In particular, he was in a hurry to avoid the warrior’s sharp blade, but he couldn’t stop it properly, so he started to get wounds on his body.

“Hali-hali-nim! Poison-”

“This lizard bastard! Why aren’t you giving me the dagger quickly!”

“If that’s your wish, then get it, you bastard!”

Biyemi also took out a dagger and swung it, but they have already experienced the fearsomeness of the dagger.

He made fun of Biyemi while avoiding close-quarter combat that could be reached by a dagger.

Biyemi was also a mage.

For melee dealers who were well prepared for this dagger attack, such an attack could not work.

The Marching Plain became noisy in an instant at the fierce momentum of the enemies jumping from all directions.

The sound of the cold weapons crashing, the spirits, and the sound of skills.

“Slash!”

“Kaak!”

The lizardia’s chest was cut.

Biyemi quickly retreated, but the assassin with a small knife continued to follow.

(To be continued…)
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The momentum of the Rising Sun instantly revived when Biyemi was pushed back.

“Biyemi-nim! Shit”

Leeha wielded the large mana bayonet to his enemies and support Biyemi.

“Biyemi-nim, are you okay?”

“My vision is pretty red. There’s also the continuous bleeding damage.”

Biyemi glanced at his chest and clenched his teeth.

“I caught the lizard bastard! Nice!”

“Even that marksman won’t be able to shoot, I am looking forward to that coat! Hehe.”

2 vs 6 battle was unreasonable.

It was good that they were able to kill two by surprise, but the succeeding fight could only result in a loss.

‘Damn it… I can’t die here. If only I could run……

Leeha looked at Lepanto.

Without Lepanto, he would have been able to use the hit-and-run strategy.

‘Should I give up the quest?’

Leeha seriously thought about Biyemi .

The quest would be over anyway, once I die.

They can’t leave Lepanto alone, because he would die. In the end, no matter who died, the quest would be over.

Leeha suddenly felt sad for Biyemi. Why did he have to take care of such a hindrance?


‘No, it isn’t like that. It was just bad luck.’

But that was only for a while. The camaraderie that they had since Candle Castle….

Considering that Biyemi had helped him until now, Leeha thought that their current circumstance was just an unfortunate event.

“Phew, who is this? Is he also your friend?”

“Hehe, hey! Kill him too! Why are they carrying a beggar around?”

The instantaneous sprint speed of a melee dealer was much faster than Leeha’s basic run. They would be able to cut him while he was reloading.

However, if he stayed still, he would die.

It was a bit reckless but he had to gamble. Now, when these guys are careless.

‘I will run, I only need to earn 50 seconds.’

He will attract their attention and all four will follow.

He wouldn’t be able to reload completely, but he would be able to earn distance from Biyemi and Lepanto, and if there’s a gap…… Biyemi should be able to move again.

What if the people that followed him hesitated or panicked for a while?

He might be able to finish reloading. If he did it right, he might be able to create an opportunity for a counterattack.

First of all, Leeha needed time.

“That person is an NPC. If you killed an NPC, wouldn’t it be a problem for you too?”

Leeha shouted.

“Haha, it’s an NPC. What if we kill one or two NPCs. Just stay still, you bastard.”

“Ho, aren’t you an important bastard? He’s telling me not to kill you.”

“Right? Hey! If you give me your coat and boots, I won’t kill this beggar. So give it to me.”

Again, the eyes of the four focused on Lepanto.


Should I run now?

Just as Leeha was about to tell Biyemi the plan, a whisper came from Biyemi first.

– Run when I count to three.

-What? What?

– Before I die, I will cast a magic spell. I’m telling you to go far away. You can’t get involved. One.

– W-Wait. Biyemi-nim, what are you doing? Stop! We have to figure out a way to survive! I am looking for-

-No. I brought them here, so I am responsible for them. Get ready, two.

“Are you going to give it to me or not? Do you want me to kill this beggar? Huh?”

Those men were shaking their asses and making fun of Leeha and Biyemi.

“Hyung-nim, just kill them. We have another target.”

“Right, we can kill them again once they reconnect.”

The front-most warrior grabbed Lepanto and lifted him up.

“First of all, this beggar!”

And he swung his sword.

“Damn it! It’s not-”

It was not over! Leeha stood up and tried to reload, but Lepanto’s body was nowhere to be seen.

There was not even blood. It was inevitable.

Puuuk—.

Because Lepanto avoided it.

“Who are you?”


Lepanto, who stood next to the sword, opened his mouth.

“W-What, t-this bastard.……”

Lepanto got up and stretched his neck left and right.

The guild members of Rising Sun were a little bewildered by his casual look and took a step back.

“What are you doing!”

“Squi- no, outlander. Are these your enemies?”

Lepanto’s voice was heavy. Wearing torn rags, he walked towards Leeha with his bare feet, but no one stopped him.

“ your mental health ”

Leeha asked.

“Mental? Ah, it was a little different, but yes. The magic seems to have been broken.”

“Magic?”

Leeha looked at Lepanto’s eyes.

A blue light flashed through the sagging bangs. His face was covered with dirt, but his eyes were shining.

His eyes were so intense that Leeha wondered if he was the same crazy person from a while ago.

Lepanto looked around slowly.

“The Marching Plains…… Right. Did I come back here?”

“What is this bastard talking about? Hey, you!”

There were still four Rising Sun guild members left. It was shameful for them to be scared of a beggar without a weapon.

The warrior with a two-handed sword increased his speed.

“Sprinting slash!”

A powerful diagonal slash was used by kicking the ground and letting the body fly.

He slashed his sword with such force that it looked like it wanted to separate Lepanto’s body.

“Slow. Rompre.”

Paak, however, the two-handed sword only hit the ground.

Lepanto was already five steps away.

“What, how did you dodge my skill?”

“Is it because you quickly stepped backward?”

His body did not seem to move away, not even an inch.

As if he teleported with the same posture and only his lower body moved.

“Is that all you’ve got, outlander? The Demon King will laugh at you.”

“W-what are you talking about? You one-armed beggar!”

“A true warrior does not need a weapon or even an arm.”

“You sound like a crazy bastard!”

“En garde.”

The Rising Sun guild user, whose face was red, raised his two-handed sword again.

Lepanto’s movement against him was concise. He slightly bent his knee, and prepared his right arm lightly.

“Concentrate and hit him from above!”

“Battement.”

The Rising Sun guild member ran and struck his two-handed sword.

At the same time, lepanto narrowed their distance.

His right arm was headed towards the Rising Sun guild member’s two-handed sword.

‘Sword Hand?’

In an instant, lepanto’s palm struck the sharpened blade of the two-handed sword.

Clang!

As if it was hit by another sword, the two-handed sword spun sideways.

“Kuooh?”

“Attaque Simple, coup droit.”

Lepanto’s body ‘stretched’ towards the Rising Sun guild member.

His right arm, which had stretched, stabbed like a sword and dug into his opponent’s armpit.

It hit the joint between the upper body and the arm, it was one of the weaknesses of the human body.

Lepanto’s claw ripped through his opponent’s armor and dug into his muscle.

“Kaaa- Kuwaak!!!”

“Youngest!”

“Aah, Q-quick, I can’t move my arms!”

“You beggar bastard!!!”

“Double Slash!”

“Flash.”

The men wielded their swords and surrounded Lepanto.

It was a sword that was quickly cut twice, from above and in the middle, but it did not reach Lepanto.

Lepanto showed an advanced technique of avoiding without moving, to be precise, avoiding by only moving his knees.

“Oh my goodness…”

He bent his front knee, straightened his back knee, lowered his upper body and then he did the opposite, he straightened his front knee, bent his back knee, and leaned back.

The joints of his body moved like spring to avoid the attacks.

The Rising Sun guild member’s double slash did not even manage to cut his fluttering left sleeve.

“Contre-attaque, balestra.”

After the attack skill was over, lepanto did not miss the chance to attack.

He jumped forward using his front foot, lowered his upper body, and stretched out his right arm.

“C-crazy, how can a hand attack like this-”

He hurriedly raised his sword, but Lepanto’s arm did not stop.

It was then that the blue light that covered his hands and arms faintly caught his eyes, which meant it was already too late.

“Attaque Simple, fente.”

“D-deputy commander! Help- Haak!”

Tututuk, the iron plate wrinkled. Lepanto’s one and only arm was inside the Rising Sun guild member’s left chest.

A direct hit to the heart resulted in instant death. Before the user could turn gray, lepanto already pulled out his arm and headed for his next target.

Light and fast movement, with a flexible arm. Perfect attack skills.

No one saw him as a beggar or a one-armed man anymore.

Even Ha Leeha and Biyemi could feel it. Even if all the Rising Sun guild members attacked Lepanto at the same time, they would not be able to win.

No, they won’t even be able to touch his sleeve.

“I will remember. lizard……. One-arm……. And marksman……. Keok!”

“Phew……

After the third hole drilled into the chest of the Rising Sun guild member, lepanto withdrew his right arm.

He lowered his head toward the graying-colored corpse with his legs together.

His manners until the end were no longer that of a beggar’s, but of a perfect knight.

“Amazing……. Hali-hali-nim, who is this person? Where did you find this NPC? He’s that strong without a sword……! Isn’t he better than Shin Nara?”

“Shin Nara?”

“She is ranked 6th in the world! Fencer Shin Nara! She’s Korean, didn’t you know? Hali-hali-nim, didn’t you say you’re Korean?”

He only remembered after hearing the story. It was obvious, as the Korean Flag was drawn in 6th place. He didn’t even remember the nickname…….

“Ahh. I saw it in the rankings. But, Biyemi-nim is speaking as if he had seen it?”

“T-that. Haha, I saw it. Before…… oh, he is coming!”

What? Biyemi, who was suddenly bewildered, tapped Leeha.

Lepanto approached Leeha and Biyemi.

Eyes still shining through the bangs. When Leeha saw his eyes full of speculation, he was also nervous.

‘Is this the flow of the quest? If I him all the way here, was it the right way to do it? He won’t attack me, will he?’

However, lepanto flustered Leeha in a different way.

He kneeled in front of Leeha.

“……Lepanto-nim?”

“Thank you. You…… If it wasn’t for you, my life would have ended like that. Despised by everyone and . Thank you so much.”

“Ah, don’t mention it. Lepanto-nim. That… But, finding the rapier……“

“Ah, the rapier is here. Didn’t I tell you, I can tell where the rapier is.”

“Yes?”

Hmm, that wasn’t the only thing he said when his mind was wandering. Leeha did not want to reveal it.

(To be continued…)
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Lepanto quietly began to dig. Every time his arm moved, covered in blue light, the ground rumbled.

“Was it in the ground?”

“It was because of the war.”

Minutes passed.

Shortly after, a thin rod appeared.

It was covered in dirt and rusted, and anyone would think it was garbage, but when Lepanto’s right hand grabbed it, it began to have of a perfect sword.

“Brochette…”

It was the sword’s name. Lepanto whispered the name quietly, and the light in his right arm moved to the sword.

The rapier absorbed the mana.

And Biyemi, who saw it, opened his mouth, as his dropped.

“A magic Sword……?”

“Biyemi-nim?”

“That is a magic sword! That rapier… Just look at that light. Oh my god, what kind of magic sword was buried in this empty field?”

What is a magic sword? It wasn’t just a search for a long-lost rapier. At least, it was certain that it was a strange sword.

The rapier, who took Lepanto’s mana as if it was swallowing it, was removing the rust by itself and blew away the dust.

It didn’t take long for the flashing sword to appear.

“I finally found it… Now I can finally start over again. Kuheuk…… euuhk……“

Lepanto sobbed a little. What was he going to start over?


At least, from the end of the Human-Demon War until now, the memories lost for the past 20 years and the joy of finding the sword again, Leeha knew it.

“Cough, cough. I looked ugly. What is your name outlander?”

“Ha, it is Ha Leeha.”

“Thank you, Ha Leeha-kun. Thanks to you, I got everything back. Thank you so much.”

“It was nothing.”

Lepanto tied the rapier to his waist and hugged Leeha using his only arm.

The stinky smell from Lepanto’s body had already disappeared.

Babam-!

『You have completed the Escorting the Veteran quest.』

『Intimacy with ‘Skewer’ Lepanto increases by 100%.』

『Fibiel Kingdom’s National Contribution increased by 10.』

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with ‘Skewer’ Lepanto.』

『Continental Reputation increased by 10.』

『You leveled up.』

‘Oh……?’

Continental Reputation increased just by reaching 100% intimacy? Isn’t that a public achievement for the Fibiel Kingdom?

‘Is the continental fame because of this beggar- no, this fencer?’

If Leeha took into account his level rising, the difficulty of the quest was considerable.

Well, if he was a normal level 30 player, he would have died at the entrance of Marching Plains.

Although the level up and reputation increase felt good, his main purpose still remained.


Leeha opened his mouth as he released his hug with Lepanto.

“Knight Lepanto-nim. Could you please tell me? About Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth.”

“… It’s better for you to not know. It was because of that that I lost my memory.”

“They?”

Did those two him lose his memory? Lepanto shook his head as he was afraid to raise any doubts.

“No, they didn’t do anything directly. But knowing their whereabouts, I had no choice but to be enchanted with memory control magic.”

“Memory Control Magic…… Why?”

“How can we tolerate the betrayal of National or Continental heroes? That shouldn’t have happened.”

Lepanto shook his head.

Was he regretting it or was he laughing at someone? Maybe he was laughing at himself.

“So, I shut my mouth. For all those who witnessed Mr. and Mrs. Brown’s departure that day and reported to their superiors. I think my name was well known too, but compared to them, I was just a fledgling fencer. If it was possible to sacrifice a few young knights to preserve the hope of mankind, it would have been natural to do so.”

However, lepanto’s appearance that was grinding his teeth meant that he would not forgive them.

“Then those who cast the memory-control magic……?”

“At that time, the staff officer of the 3rd Corps. Wizard Lotzac. Where is he now-”

“…… Wizard Lotzac? Who was he? Isn’t he the leader of the mages of the Royal Palace?”

“?!”

“!?”

It was Biyemi who answered.

“Does the Lizardia outlander know the Wizard Rotzak?”

“Ah, no, I do not know him personally. I have just heard of him.”


Anger flashed in Lepanto’s eyes for a moment. His eyes showed that he would cut down Biyemi if he said he was friends with Rotzak.

Flustered, Biyemi quickly waved his hands.

“Biyemi-nim……? How do you know him?”

“Ah, that, didn’t you know? He is a famous NPC. Ha- Hali-hali-nim knows the name of Captain Jiat as well, right?”

“What? This and that…. are different.”

There was no comparison between the quest NPC in the beginner village that everyone encounters, with the NPC Chief Mage in the Royal Palace that I have not even seen or heard.

Much less when Lepanto mentioned his position and name during the Second Human-Demon warring period.

He was the staff officer of the Corps. How did he know whether or not the 3rd Corps Staff Officer became the Royal Palace Chief Mage?. With just the mention of the name Rotzak?

‘As expected, this person……’

Leeha’s eyes twinkled, but there was no time to chat.

Lepanto spoke again.

“Anyway…… at that time, they tried to conceal it, but even the records could not be manipulated, and the Royal Archives must have written what ‘we’ reported. The royal records cannot be modified or deleted by anyone except the king.”

“The Royal Archives……?”

“The king ordered that any small-scale local wars be recorded in all respects related to the Second Human-Demon War. It will definitely be there. Much more detailed information than what I know.”

Lepanto nodded. Leeha wanted to know who the people he expressed ‘we’ were.

Perhaps it was the people that went to report when they saw Mr. and Mrs. Brown leave.

If they were lucky, they would remember the memory they lost, like Lepanto, but if they didn’t…… they would still be wandering like a mad beggar, or dead.

It was valuable information that those people reported in exchange for their lives. It was Lepanto’s guess that the information would be gathered at the Royal Archives.

“Kikit, the Royal Archives… Hali-Hali-nim will have a hard time.”

“Do you know it?”

It was no longer surprising that Biyemi interjected.

Rather, Leeha began to ask under the assumption that the Lizardia knew everything.

“It’s in the basement of the royal castle. It is difficult to find exactly what you are looking for among the vast amount of data, but the problem is, it is impossible to get there.”

“Why?”

“Kiskiskis, hali-Hali-nim, how much fame or national achievements do you have now?”

“I……”

Should I tell him? Leeha opened his Achievements window and looked at the figures.

Continent Fame 160, Fibiel National Achievement 265. All other countries 0.

‘Kijung said that I have very high fame compared to my level. Biyemi might be suspicious of something if I said it here…….’

That’s not a problem now.

He decided that Biyemi’s secrets might be bigger than his. If so, he thought that it would be beneficial to reveal details to some extent and dig up Biyemi’s information.

“Continental Fame 160, Fibiel 265.”

“Huh? Huh? Kiskiskis, really? And you’re only level 34?”

“Yes. It somehow happened like that.”

Biyemi looked like he wanted to upload.

However, Leeha’s answer did not come out.

“Kiskis, whoa…… really…… It’s like I don’t know Hali-Hali-nim even when I already know you. It’s a huge number, but you still won’t be able to get in. The conditions for entering the palace itself is Continental Fame 300 and Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution 500. Moreover, don’t you want to enter the Royal Archives? If it’s there, unless you know someone special…… you won’t be able to enter with a simple reputation or contribution.”

“The Lizardia Outlander is right. It would have been left as a royal record, but it’s obvious that it won’t have any special numbers. Because some people won’t even be able to read it. If Ha Leeha is looking for information, you might be able to find it if you go there”

Lepanto nodded at Biyemi’s words.

However, Leeha thought differently.

“Oh…… I would like Knight Lepanto-nim to tell the story directly.”

“Directly?”

“Mr. Browless wants information about the two of them. It’s good for me to find information, but…… If ‘skewer’ Lepanto-nim meets him in person-”

“I’m sorry. I can’t.”

Lepanto shook his head. Leeha slightly clenched his teeth. He couldn’t send Lepanto back just like that.

Wasn’t it hard to enter the Royal Palace, and harder to find the Royal Records? Perhaps, what Biyemi said was true.

‘Then, he didn’t have time to gather evidence! Bargaining activate!’

『Bargaining skill activated.』 『The chance of persuading the target increased by 24%.』

As the saying goes, to raise your reputation, you must receive quests from level 200 or higher.

In other words, at a low level, there was no other way to get it by chance.

However, this quest had a time limit. He didn’t have the time to go looking for something like that.

Rather than go to Browless to search for the records, Leeha decided to take Lepanto directly.

“I don’t have much time. Browless, who remained in the capital, was waiting to get any piece of information! Aren’t Lepanto-nim and Browless former comrades?”

“Comrade……”

“Can’t we go directly to Headmaster Browless, if we can’t get the records? Anyway, he’s one of the Three Musketeers. His reputation and contribution to the country will be sufficient. So if Knight Lepanto-nim talked to Browless face to face…… won’t you be able to figure it out much faster?”

Leeha spat out words.

He really didn’t know what was going to happen. However, his words made sense, so Lepanto was not able to decide easily.

Browless, one of the Three Musketeers, will be able to enter the Royal Archives.

“No…… I’m sorry. However, I can’t do that.”

『Persuasion failed.』

‘Keuheuk!!!’

Leeha struggled to hold back what he wanted to shout out. If this happened, activating the skill again will be of no use….

“Why? Knight Lepanto-nim-”

“I am a dead man.”

“What?”

“Why did Rotzak cast magic on me, or on ‘us’? It was to kill me. To remove me from this world without dirtying his hands. If I couldn’t regain my memory, I would have lived and died as a beggar, or I would have died at the hands of monsters while wandering around. So I can’t go to the capital. No, I can’t be in the Fibiel Kingdom.”

It was a contradictory statement, but Leeha could understand it.

In this world, a person who should have been forgotten and lost, should not appear in the capital.

“Rotzak…… Are you going to pursue him?”

He didn’t know if he could pursue him, but Lepanto did not want to let go. If I remind him of my existence again, other knights could be in danger.

It can be said that Rotzak could kill all those who reported at the time and those who had their memory control magic cast on them. If Biyemi was right, it’s because he’s in the position of a ‘Royal Palace Mage’ now.

(To be continued…)
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“Take this.”

Lepanto reached his hands into his pants. Biyemi burst into laughter when he saw Lepanto’s hands going to his worn-out rag-like pants, but Leeha waited patiently.

‘Where is he getting it from……?’

There doesn’t seem to be any pockets…… No way……? Leeha was thinking of terrible thoughts but what Lepanto took out was a small coin.

“This..?”

“Musketeer Browless of the Three Musketeers, he would know how to use that. Bring it as a proof of what I said.”

Leeha did not know what it was, but he put it in his inventory first.

“Then Lepanto-nim will now……?”

“……I have to go after them.”

“Who……? Ah, mr. and Mrs. Brown?”

“I want to hear their answer… from that night. It would be less unfair for our comrades. Our comrades who got their lives ruined because of them.”

Lepanto grabbed his rapier tightly.

For a moment, Leeha and Biyemi’s bodies trembled at the bloodlust that Lepanto released.

“Then, thank you. I will never forget this grace all my life.”

“I-it was nothing.”

“I hope to see you again next time.”

Lepanto bowed to Leeha and left.

The one-armed Lepanto walked looking like a rag, without any armor or even shoes.


With such a figure, the rapier, ‘Brochet’, held in his right hand seemed to shine even more.

“Phew. He’s gone. Kiskis.”

“I know, right?.”

“Then, are you going to the capital again, hali-Hali-nim?”

“Yes. I came here for the quest.”

“Kiskis, too bad. It would be good if we could level up together here.”

“Are you going to stay here, Biyemi-nim?”

“The Rising Sun guys don’t know that that person is an NPC…… they won’t be coming here for a while, right? Kiki. It is difficult to find a hunting ground without those bastards.”

The Lizardia frowned.

Leeha also understood Biyemi’s words.

If the Rising Sun guild members knew that they were hunting with Lepanto, it would be hard for them to come here. They may come back with members in their 70s or 80s, but Biyemi should be safe for at least a few days.

“Hali-hali-nim.”

“Yes?”

“Get stronger quickly.”

“Huh? Yes. Of course, I will.”

Even if you tell me not to get stronger, I will still get stronger. Why are you suddenly speaking so seriously?

However, Leeha felt that Biyemi was not just talking empty words.

“Ah, Biyemi-nim?”

“Yes.”

“I need to be stronger to get rid of the Rising Sun, right?”


“Oh…… Kiki, is that so?”

“Lepanto killed them, so it’s the same as me killing them, isn’t it? Please answer one thing.”

Gulp, Biyemi swallowed his saliva. Leeha considered several questions.

What should he ask? Biyemi’s true identity? Is he a Middle Earth staff? No, even if he knew, it did not matter.

There was one thing that was important to Leeha.

“Why are you helping me?”

“What do you mean help?”

“Information. The most important thing in Middle Earth was information. You tell things…… that are helpful for me. If you had something like that, it would have been better if you sold it for money.”

“Eh? Kikis, did I? Didn’t Hali-Hali-nim make a good guess after listening to me when I talk to myself?”

“Don’t joke. Because I’m stupid. I didn’t notice anything. Biyemi-nim brought up this and that to let me know.”

After entering Marching Plains, all of his stories were hints.

Hints that could be advantageously applied to Leeha’s future growth.

Giving something like that so freely…

“Why did you tell me those?”

What was Biyemi’s reason?

That was what Leeha wanted to ask.

He didn’t know what Biyemi really wanted. But Leeha wanted to know why Biyemi was good to him.

The lizard’s eyes narrowed. It was clear that he understood the intention of Leeha’s question.

“Because you look like someone with potential.”

“Potential?”


“To receive as much as I have given. Because Hali-hali-nim has such potential.”

Was he going to smirk as usual? Leeha saw that Biyemi had a serious expression as well.

‘In the end, it means that he is helping me because he thought that I could help him…… No, I am of no help to Biyemi. I can only fire a few shots with my musket.’

If so…… investment? Does this mean that Biyemi was looking into the distant future and is investing in Leeha? Is he going to be in debt?

“Kikis, why are you taking it seriously! Get back to the capital and grow stronger! Kikikis.”

“Even if you don’t see it now. The next time we meet, I will definitely level than you.”

“Arara? Kikis, Jin Gonggong is already at level 23, won’t he catch up to us soon? Kikis.”

Giant Druid? When Leeha thought of Jin Gonggong, he smiled.

‘That simple man is already level 23…… It’s not like he did not have any gaming sense.’

Still, level 23 is faster than the speed of normal users. In comparson, Leeha, who was already level 34, and Biyemi, who was already level 51, are simply monsters.

“Then, take care! Hali-hali-nim!”

“You take care as well, Biyemi-nim! And next time, don’t hide your dagger I won’t steal it from you, so you don’t need to hide it!”

“Eh?”

Biyemi looked at Leeha with an expression that he was caught in the act.

Reminding him that he saw everything during the battle.

“Haha, see you next time!”

“Haha, I can’t win. Goodbye, hali-Hali-nim!”

Leeha smiled and left the Marching Plain. His next destinationthe capital.

He felt that he crossed a mountain and encountered another mountain.

‘Phew…… I have completed one quest.’

Will this end? It’s not just his word, but it’s fortunate that Lepanto gave me this coin as proof…… however, Leeha’s anxiety did not go away easily.

‘It took over two days. If it ends like this, I will clear it very quickly.’

Of course, it was possible because of the power of money. If one thought about the distance from Aelstock to Nitai…… he would have barely made it if he went on foot.

“A total of 8 silver and 50 copper.”

“It’s that much?”

“I gave you more, since the items are from Marching Plains.”

“Keu……. Okay.”

Leeha got out of Nitai’s general store with a few more coins in his bag. He picked up a lot of sundries and , but didn’t have much money.

The Rising Sun guild members dropped and helmet.

He gave one to Biyemi and sold for only about 70 silver.

‘If I subtract the warp cost to Aelstock, I have 88 silver left. Phew.’

Being happy for having 7 gold in the capital felt like a dream. Of course, he changed his musket, but…… for some reason, the more quests he got, the more Leeha felt like he was losing money.

“Still, I can’t take it as a deficit.”

Leeha walked towards the warp gate and opened the notification window.

He couldn’t help but laugh when he saw the descriptions.

“Hahaha……. Right, I can earn money anytime. But you can’t buy this with money.”

『Achievement:: Sheriff of the Lawless Zone(D+)』

Congratulations! You have killed criminals with a Chaotic Index of 200 or higher! Is murder justified? Of course! I would like to ask for order in Middle Earth from now on.

Reward: 9 stat points

『Achievement: Hero of PVP(B-)』

Congratulations! You have won a battle against a user with 30 levels higher than you! I hope you continue to prove you didn’t win by luck. Become a hero and ruler in the world of PVP, and make a name for yourself as a legend! Until the day you can defeat your enemies with just your name!

Reward: 13 stat points.

There were a total of 22 stat points. As soon as he dealt the first blow to the Rising Sun, who was chasing Biyemi, he got two achievements at the same time.

At that time, Leeha was level 33, so the guy that had a Chaotic Index of 200 or higher must have been level 63 or higher.

‘Right, if you have a hole in your head, it’s over! Kek. Even those kinds of idiots can reach level 60……. I also need to level up quickly. By the way, there weren’t any extra points even though it’s B-?’

Interestingly, he didn’t get to the Hall of Fame.

Users who did not even know such a thing existed would say so, but for Leeha who had gotten to the Hall of Fame a few times, it was rather disappointing.

‘If it’s PVP with 30 leves of difference, it won’t be normal. It was an achievement that was not an exaggeration to say that is practically impossible……

It was similar to him fighting a level 1 user. The difference of 30 levels was so large that it was impossible to even consider losing.

‘It was at B- difficulty. But 3 people were able to do it……?’

Those kinds of people can not be easily seen on Middle Earth. Leeha opened his character window and organized his stats.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 34 (11%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 20

HP: 1860 / MP: 390

Stats:

Strength: 52(+37)

Agility: 331 (+139)

Intellligence: 55(+40)

Constitution: 81(+33)

Mind: 21 (+11)

Remaining Stats: 37

‘The required strength for Spitfire was 60……

The high-quality musket has twice the attack power of the needle gun. Although it was 18 gold, the Kobold’s Eonwoldo has not yet been sold. Leeha thought that he could buy the Spitfire once the Kobold’s Eonwoldo was sold.…….

‘Isn’t it better to buy a musket that was dropped from a hunt than a musket from a sho anyway?’

What if I sold the Kobold’s Eonwoldo and buy a musket at the auction house?

I might be able to get a musket that is stronger than the Spitfire. There was no reason to spend 18 gold to purchase an item from the store.

‘More than anything else, it hasn’t been long since I switched .’

He knew best that musketeers don’t rely on their weapons.

37 stat points were invested into agility without any second thoughts.

Stats: Strength: 52(+37)

Agility: 368(+139)

Intellligence: 55(+40)

Constitution: 81(+33)

Mind: 27(+17)

Remaining Stat Points: 0

‘Hehe…… My agility is almost 370. How many levels does it equal? Right, my goal is 400 agility!’

I will need to level up 7 more times to get to that.

However, Leeha was also aiming for achievements. He stood in front of the warp gate with the grand ambition of 400 agility before level 40.

“I’m going to the capital, aelstock.”

“The capital of Fibiel Kingdom, aelstock. 1 person. It costs 80 silver.”

“Here!”

Leeha handed out the coins readily.

Now, he had less than 1 gold left. I hope there won’t be another time that I have to go this far!

Shuwaak-!

The magic circle was engulfed in light

(To be continued…)
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“I’m back, director-nim.”

The inside of the academy was still dark. It was only after Leeha opened the door that a human presence was felt.

‘Does he usually hide his presence?’

Come to think of it, he was fighting someone when I came back from Sheymoore.

There must be a reason why he had to be on guard from others.

“You’re back already?”

“Yes. I learned some information about your request.”

“……Only four days? Didn’t I say that I have been digging for the past 20 years to get any information?”

“Although it was only for three days, I went out the border. I reached ‘Marching Plains’.”

Browless’s body stiffened when he heard the word ‘Marching Plain’.

“Okay, I will hear you. However…… You know, right?”

“Yes.”

Gulp, Leeha swallowed dry saliva. How much trouble did he encounter from traveling to the capital to enter the academy?

After wandering in front of the academy’s door, Leeha finally decided to complete the quest result report.

『Disappeared Legends』

Condition for Failure: When the deadline is exceeded, when incorrect information is provided(limited to one clear chance)

Penalty for failure: 『Disappeared Legends』 will disappear, 『Browless’s expectations』 will be canceled, Quest route will reset, ‘Only one chance to clear the quest…… Once an answer is submitted, it can no longer be modified. That’s it.’

If so, the answer was to collect information until the deadline?


However, it did not seem to be the case for Leeha.

In the first place, the deadline was only 20 days. It is by no means a long time in Middle Earth.

‘It did not say that I should know the perfect answer. In fact, the description was nothing like that.’

Browless wanted to know if they were dead or alive. He said he wanted to get information, not rumors. And to the current Leeha?

Wasn’t there something to prove that it was not just a rumor?

There was no need to gather multiple inaccurate information. He only needed to do it right once. All that was needed was the essence of the quest.

However, Leeha’s prediction was wrong.

“Keuk. All hidden quests will be destroyed and I will become a normal musketeer.’

Leeha took a deep breath. And he began to tell Lepanto’s story.

Inside the dark room with the blinds closed, Browless listened to Leeha’s story without lifting a finger.

Fibiel Kingdom’s strongest musketeer, what happened to the two of the Three Musketeers that were famous throughout the continent.

Where did they go after the Grand Battle of the Marching Plains?

Browless did not move, that was until it was mentioned that the two had betrayed mankind and went to the side of the Demon King and into the arms of the demon tribe.

“The rumors that they were dead, and the rumors that they escaped because of love, were all wrong. That’s the most convincing information I have heard-”

Baang!

And finally, Browless slammed the desk and stood up.

His body trembled. He was not happy to hear that his colleagues were alive.

“Betrayed humanity? Brown? Elizabeth? Where did you get that nonsensical rumor!”

“This is well-founded information! There are people who have witnessed and reported it!”

“Fool! What kind of bastard is trying to break the friendship of the Three Musketeers? That bastard is the Demon King’s spy, l, no he’s definitely a spy from another country! Wasn’t that the guy from Minis? Is he trying to break the balance of power now? Motherfuckers!”


Browless was angered.

have been NPC-like to not stutter a word, but Leeha saw Browless’s expectations and worries.

Does this reaction warrant a quest clear? Or does this mean a failure?

Anyway, Middle Earth won’t let anyone finish a quest easily. Leeha worked hard to try and persuade Browless.

“It’s not like that, director-nim! Why Mr. and Mrs. Brown left…… I don’t know the reason! However, wasn’t the information you were looking for accurate? That’s why I have brought it to you! Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth are alive. Only…… Only, they are not on the side of humans!”

“Shut up!”

He groaned.

That moment, Leeha saw.

The appearance of Browless reloading so fast that his movements could not be seen.

In the short time that he turned around and picked the musket, once he turned back and aimed at Leeha, the reloading was already over.

‘5…… no……. 3 seconds…That speed is crazy.’

As Leeha was admiring the speed, Browless was breathing heavily.

He usually showed a feisty and somewhat cynical attitude, and he was not the type to act impulsively.

On the contrary, as Browless aimed at Leeha, Leeha felt that his head was about to explode.

‘To say that this is not a normal behavior pattern…‘

It means that the story is going well.

Browless would never shoot him. Leeha was certain.

“The evidence…… I have evidence.”

“Take it out.”

Still, Leeha was not in a hurry.


Even when the black musket, which was not even visible in the dark, was aimed at him, he acted slowly and carefully.

“It’s evidence provided by the one who gave the information. I don’t know what it is, but if the director…… One of the Three Musketeers, Browless, would know it for sure.

‘

Browless kept his posture fixed and glanced at the coin.

His expression did not change, but at least, the atmosphere had changed.

There was meaning when the NPC, who was the director of the academy, aimed the musket on his ‘student’ who was a user.

With a gloomy expression on his face, Browless pulled the musket back and picked up the coin.

The heat from the coin flashed for a moment and then disappeared.

“……Right……. Lepanto……. Skewer Lepanto is still alive.”

“How did you know?”

“It’s a tracking coin. You will be able to know where the owner of the coin is. It’s for us who prioritize the location of allies and enemies to carry out our mission…… coins of representative knights are given.”

Because you shouldn’t shoot your own ally. And we need to know if the operation is progressing properly.

“And I know the owner of this mana……. Because he was in the 3rd army. He was the guy that ran rampant at the forefront of the assault regiment.”

Browless’s voice quiet.

Because he was resigned and withdrew his excitement and anger.

“Did he really say that? Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth……. Did they really go to the Demon King’s army?”

“Yes. He said that he witnessed it first hand and even reported it. Besides Knight Lepanto, there were other people who said that they saw it.”

“Report?”

“Yes. He reported to Rotzak and said Rotzak cast a spell to control the memory of the witnesses to cover up the fact.”

“Rotzak…… he was a magician.”

Browless also knew. In fact, he was not surprised now to learn that what Biyemi said was true.

“Knight Lepanto said that there would be records in the Royal Archives. It’s a record of what people have seen and said besides Lepanto.”

“Then why did I……. No, I might be the reason why.”

Browless ground his teeth.

“Yes?”

“You…… Do you have time in the evening?”

“Dinner?”

A notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『Quest content has changed.』

『Quest conditions have changed.』

『Disappeared Legends』

Description: ‘Did they really betray him……? Why the hell did they try to hide it? Was it necessary… in order to understand the Demon King’s Army’s intention? You have to check the exact content in the Royal Records.’

Browless needs data from the Royal Archives. However, going directly to a place where security is tight will only raise doubts for Rotzak. Disguised as Browless’s attendant, infiltrate the Royal Palace to secure the Royal Records. Content: Securing the records’ whereabouts of Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth.

Reward: ???

Condition for Failure: When discovered or killed by the Royal Palace Guards.

Penalty for failure: 『Disappeared Legends』 will disappear.

『Browless’s Expectations』 will be canceled.

Quest route will be reset

Intimacy with all NPCs in Fibiel Kingdom -50%

You will no longer be able to enter Fibiel Kingdom’s Royal Palace.

– Do you accept?

‘Oh? Ohh?’

What, in the middle of the quest? So that’s it! Leeha opened his eyes and read the quest description again and again.

Disguise? Infiltrate? Secure? Detect? Dead?

Just reading the descriptions was terrifying already. Besides, what are those huge penalties for failure?

‘Crazy! That’s crazy! Isn’t it the same as saying that I should no longer live as a Fibiel citizen if I get discovered?’

Not only the NPCs at the Royal Castle. But all NPCs in the kingdom.

It’s not only the loss of intimacy with all NPCs in Candle Castle but also in the capital, aelstock. Entry to the Royal Palace will also possible.

It is similar to being on the blacklist.

‘It will be a record in some way. I am going to be a spy! Although I was a soldier, I did what agents from the Nations Intelligence Service would do…….’

When Leeha was unable to hide his struggle, Browless spoke again.

“Are your words just cr*p. And if Lepanto was right.”

“Yes.”

“I want to check it out myself. Through the report collected at the Royal Archives.”

As soon as Browless opened his mouth, Leeha triggered Bargaining skill.

It can’t end like this. I need to change it!

“I-If that’s the case, wouldn’t it be better if the director went? I don’t have access yet-”

“No, don’t you see that Rotzak is trying to cover this up, and no one in the Royal family has ever told me this? I can’t go on my own. They don’t want me to know about this. It means I can’t go myself.”

『Persuasion failed.』

‘Damn it…… you didn’t trust me before.’

It seems Browless had already anticipated it to some extent.

Considering that Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth’s betrayal was already confirmed.

Who and what purpose did they not tell it to Browless. Maybe there are more people other than Rotzak. His head was already complicated enough.

If one thought about it that way, Browless is definitely right.

If the person related to the situation came forward, it would definitely make things bigger and more complicated. The best way would be—.

“So I think it’s for the best if someone I can trust could get the record.”

“Right…… as soon as……”

“Right. Ha Leeha, it’s you. There’s only you.”

Someone he could trust. Browless said, referring to Leeha directly.

Leeha also found that he was trusted than a hundred words of praise

.

He couldn’t even refuse it anyway, but if it was stated like that, then Leeha had no other choice.

“T-then what should I do?”

“After entering the Royal Palace with me, you should secretly go to the Royal Archives and read the records in the dark. Here, take this.”

It sounded easy. Read in the dark? Wasn’t it a complete theft?

“What is this?”

Browless gave Leeha a mirror-like object.

“It can only do it once…… but it is an object that could capture the moment you want to record. If you find the record, you only need to reflect on the contents of the record. It doesn’t need any mana, so you can use it anytime.”

Click…… Leeha was able to understand Browless’s words.

In other words, it was like a digital camera or camcorder.

Browless said to take this and go to the Royal Archives and take a copy of the original. That was stealing.

“The entry to the Royal Palace…… I know that there are restrictions on reputation and national contribution. Wouldn’t it be higher if it was in the Royal Archives?”

“Don’t worry. It will be possible to enter.”

Browless’s trembling voice made Leeha even more anxious.

Clearly, Biyemi said that he wouldn’t be allowed to enter with only his contribution points. He said thatLeeha any special connections.

‘However…… I only need to succeed once……. You can tell that he changed how he viewed me…… I don’t have a choice anymore.’

He went from being a kid to ‘Leeha-kun’.

Once he completes this quest, Leeha will be Browless’s favorite disciple.

In other words, if the quest is completed, there a high chance that the reward not be simple.

Above all, since it was continuously covered with ???, the ripple effect would be beyond imagination.

The fact that the penalty for failure was terrifying means that the sweetness of the reward would be enormous.

‘Smells like money…… Whether it’s money or growth, it can’t be compared to normal quests.’

That’s if it was cleared. If Leeha couldn’t clear the quest right away, the reward and everything will turn into nothing.

It was worth the challenge. It was enough.

Because a person who plays games to make money can never go down the normal path.

Leeha pressed the accept button.

“Of course, finding the record and getting out safely would be a problem.”

“Yes? Can you repeat that?”

“No, it’s nothing.”

A buzzing sound was heard as soon as he pressed the button.

Of course, Leeha was not able to hear it properly.

Would he have accepted it if he heard it?

“We don’t have much time, Leeha-kun. You need to hurry and it .”

“……I understand.”

Browless grabbed Leeha’s shoulder. As his warm and heavy hand touched Leeha’s shoulder, he felt like he was assimilating without even realizing it.

He heard various information about the Royal Palace.

About two hours later, as the sun began to set in Middle Earth, Leeha and Browless headed to the Royal Palace.

Browless proudly held his musket with his hat pressed down as Leeha followed him.

While he was learning information about the Royal Palace, Leeha only had one thought.

‘This is crazy. I should have just rejected it and done something different.’

It might have been better to do the regular quests, level up through repeated hunting, and collect and sell items. Of course, as a musketeer, even that would be difficult.

Leeha gently raised his head and looked at the huge wall of the Royal Castle.

‘Passing through this inner wall would be the first gateway.’

The inner wall was over 10 meters in height.

It was a height that a mage could jump over using Levitation.

Of course, crossing the wall without permission would be a luxurious way to commit suicide. Because the Royal Palace mages wouldn’t just stand by and watch.

“Don’t be nervous.”

“Okay.”

Leeha nodded his head slowly. Although a thief should be light-footed, his heart was quite heavy.

Slowly, the appearance of the guards came into view.

Kachang, the guards saw the two of them and tilted their halberds to block the .

“Tell me your affiliation and name, and touch this.”

“Brown Bess Musket Academy, Browless.”

Browless said and placed his hand on the small crystal ball beside the gate.

As the crystal ball flashed blue, and the guards lifted their halberds.

“Welcome, rapid fire Browless. For what purpose did you come here?”

“I have a business to do with the mages.”

“Understood. Please let us know when you leave! The person behind you……?”

“My attendant.”

Is it that simple? Leeha suddenly felt his heart beating. The guards looked up and down for a long time.

“Please come in!”

“Thank you.”

As Browless took the lead, Leeha also nodded and followed behind.

“Are you nervous?”

“I’m just glad that I didn’t pee myself.”

Browless shrugged his shoulders as Leeha followed him.

He complained a little, saying they were about to steal because of Browless, but Browless did not seem to .

After passing through the tunnel under the thick inner wall, a beautiful garden unfolded in front of them.

“This is the heart of the Fibiel Kingdom, the Royal Palace of the Capital, aelstock.”

“Wow! It’s a lot more beautiful than I thought.”

“Yeah, and it’s dangerous.”

The Royal Palace was not just a beautiful old castle.

It has a garden that ignores the season, with all kinds of flowers and trees in full bloom. A fountain in the center. As the beautiful scenery blended with the sunset, it was like a masterpiece.

‘Have they set up traps in a garden like this? It’s really good that one would get deceived.’

All this beauty was just for deception.

Even if an intruder passed through the wall before they could get past this garden they would be ground to dust.

It was also proof that the Human-Demon war was over, but the continent was still engulfed in war.

“You know the geography, right?”

“I memorized what you taught me. The different concubines have separate palaces, in the east, west, and middle. After securing the items in the Eastern Palace, go to the Western Palace. Do not even get close to the Central Palace. Understood?”

“Understood. I have memorized the path you said. When going to the Western Palace from the Eastern Palace, a trap will be triggered if you accidentally go astray.”

The Central Palace, which contains the King’s Office, is impossible to enter for normal business, and you will be immediately discovered if you wander around.

Leeha followed Browless and memorized the road.

The traps could be activated even if the position of your step has only slightly shifted! How the hell do the people of the Royal Palace get around—.

‘Didn’t he say that the location and type of traps also change periodically? And once one gets caught, even if you luckily avoid the trap, you will still be seen ……‘

It was similar to CCTV.

Using the spirits of earth, water, and air to record the appearance and movement of people entering and leaving the palace is the main task of the Royal Palace spirits, it was not always good.

‘I have to be careful. As soon as I get discovered, my relationship with the Fibiel Kingdom will be over.’

The red sunset changed to lavender and only after darkness , did Browless and Leeha enter the Eastern Palace.

“Be careful of being noticed.”

“Yes. I will.”

The Royal Archives was still crowded with people.

There were no places where the light was turned off like royalty, and people who had no way of knowing whether a user in fancy clothes or an NPC were rushing in and out.

Leeha did not look at them and followed Browless.

Like that, they entered the basement of the Eastern Palace.

The name 『Royal Archives』 was beautifully engraved on the huge and beautiful wall.

“Is anybody here?”

“I will only get one chance. I need to be mindful. I must leave the palace three hours before midnight. Until then, I need to make sure I get to the Western Palace.”

It was currently around 6 pm. If it was 3 hours before midnight, it would be 9pm. He had to finish work within three hours and meet Browless.

As Leeha nodded and hid behind the shrub pots planted in the hallway, Browless touched the green crystal ball at the entrance.

Red light flashed, kukukung! One side of the wall opened with a roar.

‘Whoah…… That’s really cool.’

As the wall split left and right, he could see stairs going down.

Only one person can fit in? After waiting for a while, a man in white came up the stairs.

“Oh? Aren’t you Browless-nim!”

“Long time no see, clark. No, I should call you chief clerk now.”

The man with round glasses and Browless shook hands.

However, after a moment of pleasantry, clark immediately asked Browless.

“What brought you here? Ah, by the way… Even Browless-nim cannot enter this place without permission.”

The red light when he touched the crystal ball.

Was it the light that would come out when one comes without permission?

“You know, right? The reason I opened the door was that it was Browless-nim. If it was anyone else, I would have just ignored it.”

Clark looked uncomfortable.

“Nothing in particular, while I was at the Royal Palace, I just came to see an old friend’s face.”

“Oh! Is that so? However…… Isn’t this the first time Browless-nim came to see me? Haha…… Have you come to look at the records?”

“No, it’s not like that. If that was the case, I would have come with permission.”

Browless shook his head quietly, but Clark’s eyes were sharp.

“You came here without permission and looked for me…… something is a bit……”

“Is it strange?”

“Of course! If it was Browless-nim, wouldn’t it be more appropriate to see the Sacred Knights Commander or the Knight-Captain? Maybe that’s why, but I can think of many things. For example, if you brought someone with you……”

Clark smiled and looked around. There was nowhere to hide around the Royal Archives. If he had to pick one, wouldn’t it be the flowerpots in the hallway?

“Here? Should I say hello?”

“Is it! Isn’t it good to hide here!”

Clark suddenly turned his head behind the bush.

“It would have been fun if someone did come out. I guess that wasn’t it.”

There was nothing there.

“You have a lot of imagination, chief Clark.”

“Ahaha, I guess so. By the way, it feels pretty good to be called chief.”

“It is.”

Clark raised his glasses and looked back at Browless. Browless’s gaze shifted over Clark’s shoulder for a moment. Through the cracks in the wall, and the stairs going down, he could see Leeha quickly hiding.

Leeha ran without looking back.

So far, it was still according to the plan he made with Browless.

‘Someone with whom he was at least will come up, and he said that I should aim for that gap and go in right away. That person was quite suspicious, so there will be gaps.’

If he hadn’t had any doubts about Browless, Leeha probably wouldn’t have a chance.

Thanks to that person’s movement, he was able to barely get in.

‘The infiltration is over, is this the beginning? Within two hours, I have to find the report and get out without anyone knowing……

That’s plenty of time.

He said Royal Archives, so it’s like a big library, right? I can quickly check the chart to find the report and record it.

After that, I need to focus on escaping.

‘But the stairs are farther than I thought.’

Leeha, who had been going down the stairs for a while, suddenly felt strange.

‘Am I walking right now? I feel a little…….’

Leeha saw light in his field of view, which made him strangely dizzy.

Had he finally arrived? Leeha carefully went down and tilted his head a little.

“Woah-!”

And he stopped the scream that was about to burst out of his mouth.

What he saw in front of him was like outer space.

(To be continued…)
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The Royal Archives? That’s crazy! He should have told me the structure too!!

Leeha wanted to blame Browless, but he couldn’t help it.

The die has already been cast, and soon Clark will come down the stairs. How could he find it here?

‘Damn it…… How did this happen?’

Only then did Leeha know.

As he went down the stairs, he felt extremely nauseous. The reason for his dizziness must have been because of the effect of this space. Because it was not a flat surface.

It was a space where one couldn’t tell the ceiling from the floor, with countless bookshelves scattered around. Naturally, the collection was piled up, and Leeha had no idea how long it would take to read all of it.

‘There are even bookshelves like this above and below! How am I supposed to move to the bookshelves I see at the bottom of this space?’

‘No, this is not the time to worry about that.’

‘Will 3 hours be enough to find the report? Bullshit! It’s not like I only have to worry about the timing of my escape! I won’t even be able to observe if anyone would be coming’

The sound of footsteps was already starting to come from the stairs above. After a meaningless conversation with Browless, clark was probably on his way down.

Leeha had to move.

“Damn it…… I’m so scared. If I had phobia of heights, I would have fainted.”

‘I won’t fall if I take a step, would I?’ Leeha took a step. Was Buzz Aldrin’s spacewalk this intense?’

‘Kuooo, shit!’

Taak-!

I’m stepping on it. The floor.

‘What, was this only for visual effect?’


Leeha felt like an idiot for being scared. Leeha lowered his upper body and ran behind the nearby bookshelf and hid.

‘It leaves no footprint. This space…… Maybe it’s a trick?’

Does the Royal Palace, which control a lot of people, especially in the Royal Archives? It means that this place is very important.

Leeha carefully put his head out and looked towards the entrance.

After a while, clark entered.

He naturally descended the stairs, stepped on the space, and walked down.

‘Under’.

‘Oh my gosh……. Wasn’t this space only for visual effects?’

He was walking with his legs to move forwards, but Clark’s body was moving vertically as if he was riding in an elevator.

It’s not a staircase, what the hell is that? How does that work?

‘I will lose my mind if I stay here for too long. I need to quickly find the report.’

Leeha, who had been dazed for a while, quickly came to his senses. It was a strange place, but he didn’t come to play.

‘However, where is the record Human-Demon war……’

He glanced at the top of the bookshelf where he had hidden.

Long names that were difficult to read were written on them.

Judging it ending with Fibiel, it must be about kings.

‘Are these the recorded deeds of the past kings?’

That was not what was important now. Leeha carefully took one step at a time.

The feeling was similar to walking on a glass floor in the air.

Of course, it wasn’t glass, so Leeha was much more nervous than that. What was worse was he couldn’t see where he was stepping into.


‘Human-Demon…… Human……’

Leeha lowered his head from time to time to look through the gaps in the bookshelf or looked around before proceeding.

If anyone found him, it would be over.

How long do I have to walk like this? Only after walking to the point where Leeha couldn’t even see the entrance did he realize his fear of outer space.

It was a space with only bookshelves of the same size spread all over the place.

There was no distinction between up, down, left, and right, and there was no signpost. If a person who did not know the way makes a wrong move, it would result in getting lost for the rest of your life.

‘I remember the way I came from, so I will be fine……’

Using the bookshelf as a block, he memorized all directions from straight, left, and right rotation. If one could proceed in reverse order, one would be able to return to the vicinity of the entrance again.

Leeha was well aware that in an unfamiliar place, the most important thing to be careful about is the road.

‘What is that? Light?’

After walking for a while, Leeha saw a shiny bookcase. The catalog was ‘Continental Map and Frontier Status’.

Does it include the maps?

‘It may be a trap but……’

He listened quietly. There were no sound of footsteps or talking nearby. There doesn’t seem to be anyone nearby.

‘Should I take a look?’

Sneaking around, Leeha thought deeply about the Royal Archives.

Users could definitely enter this place that seemed to be out of common sense.

But if they came in like he did? Will they get lost, or will they read all the books meaninglessly?

Leeha judged that they would not.

Wasn’t Middle Earth always about risks and rewards?


‘If I think that way……Coming here itself was a test. It was said that achievement, reputation, and special necessary. In other words, one will get rewarded after entering.

Reading the scrolls in that shiny bookshelf was highly likely to give him a benefit. Moreover, was it not a visual effect that other bookshelves did not ’

‘There’s something wrong.’

To look, or not to look.

Even if it was really a reward, there was a possibility that he get caught if he too much time. But what if he didn’t read it now? Leeha did not know the next time he would come back.

Leeha took out the scroll after a lot of thought.

Leeha pulled out a scroll, it was titled ‘Eastern Continent Explorer-1’, when he read it, his wisdom by 1. Next to it, -2, -3, -4 are arranged in a row, and the bottom, azimuth marks such as North, east, west, and South were arranged in a row.

When he unfolded the scroll, a notification window appeared.

After a brief flash of light, the bewildered Leeha quickly covered it with his clothes and killed the light.

‘Damn, that was a surprise. What is it?’

He thought it was just the contents or something written down. Leeha carefully read it with the light turned off.

‘Map? No, this is…… what. Continent？’

A huge mass.

Perhaps it was an estimate of the shape of the continent. If one looked closely, one could see that the territories of each country were now divided.

And a single dot in the hologram moved to somewhere, and the, shhhing! He saw the darkness clear away.

‘Someone must have been exploring this area. And at the bottom is the information about the area……?’

Leeha looked at the information at the bottom of the scroll.

What was the terrain, what was the climate, what kind of monsters there were, and what level are they?

‘A map would be helpful. Because there were many things that could not be found even on the internet.’

Hereinafter, only information related to the geography, especially the hunting grounds, was looked at at first. Where is the most advantageous location to level up?

‘Did Biyemi also come here.’

It reminded Leeha of the Venomancer Biyemi.

Biyemi leveled up at an amazing speed where he could use his poison magic most effectively. By any chance, was he able to use this place?

Types of monsters, habits, up to the estimated level…

‘If I think about it, there is a possibility.’

It wouldn’t be difficult to sort out monsters that were weak to poison. Leeha didn’t have time to think about it.

‘Anyway, one thing is for sure. This is for users. Most importantly, NPCs do not use the word level.’

As if it was a strategy book.

‘It must be different depending on how you use the information. Some people will just pass this by.’

There will be people who will use the information that is right for them.

After memorizing the information about the monsters, Leeha looked at the author. Of course, it wasn’t Biyemi.

‘Written by Fernand. The very use of the word level…… this person must also be a user. Alright, first, I need to quickly pick out what I need!’

After memorizing a few places where he could hunt, Leeha opened the next scroll.

West this time? Again, information about the area.

‘The author……. Fernand? The same?’

South?

‘Is the author Fernand as well?’

North too?

‘Written by Fernand? What? Only one person did it all? What kind of madman-’

Ah! Then he remembered. Middle Earth complete map on the home page. It was said that only the parts pioneered by users were revealed except for the first published data.

‘And most of it…… there was a rumor that only one person did it. No one knew their name, but their nickname…… Adventure King!’

A person who roamed around the internet under the name Adventure King.

‘A person who wanders around that only the map, regardless of the quest, level, party or guild. Adventure King, survival King, Pioneering King …… the person who received so many nicknames and respect……

That’s Fernand.

Leeha was in a bit of awe. What is the level of this person?

‘Anyway, a reward is a reward. I got the information about the Adventure King for free……’

If they knew the name of Fernand, the internet would be turned upside-down. Of course, he had no intention of doing that.

‘I barely saw it, so it’s okay. Now, let’s move- hmm?’

After looking at the scroll, he put it back in. As he was about to leave, another scroll caught his eyes.

A name that made even Leeha unable to take his eyes off of it.

‘New continent exploration……?’

It was what he saw. With just that much, it was enough!

As he unfolded the scroll, a notification window appeared again. Middle Earth complete map that he had seen before.

‘This is the same as the one that came out before-……. Huh.’

And the estimated area gradually reduced. What was shown in the notification window was an endless sea. A single shiny dot left the continent and navigated the sea.

‘This is the eastern sea of the continent…… have they gone beyond the seas of Kraven Kingdom?’

In the setting, there was the Fibiel Kingdom and Kraven Kingdom that fought at sea.

Although it was a narrow rugged land confined to the southeast of the continent, it was a country that had fostered maritime trade, including fishing, and deep-sea naval forces.

Did those naval forces go beyond their usual areas?

A single dot on the notification window passed through the endless sea over and over again. When the continent was no longer visible on the notification window, a black question mark appeared on the other side.

‘Is that a new continent?’

What other information does it have?

A monster that hadn’t appeared yet? Item? Maybe it’s something like a resource.

Unlike Leeha, whose eyes were twinkling, the twinkling dot on the notification window disappeared.

For a moment, it felt like it was the end. Another notification window appeared in Leeha’s eyes.

(To be continued…)
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『New Land in the Sea of Dawn』

Description: Fernand has not returned since he left his last letter. Now that each country is frantic about exploring the new continent, fernand, the Pioneering King, is like Fibiel’s treasure! Find Fernand somewhere the continent and bring him to the Fibiel Royal Palace.

Description: Arrive at Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom, with Fernand.

Reward: Participation in the expedition to the new continent. Fibiel Kingdom’s national contribution +50. Condition of failure: Fernand participates in the expedition of another country.

– Do you accept?

‘Hmm?’

Quest? Was the shining light to give the quest?

But, Leeha thought it was absurd, fernand was a user, and the quest was to bring a user?

‘If the quest referred to him as the ‘Pioneering King’ Fernand…… It might have been because of achievement.’

Judging from the contents of the reward, the purpose was to include Fernand in the expedition to the new continent.

And if he succeeded in bringing Fernand, he would also be able to join the expedition.

‘Of course, that was only the start of the quest…… After succeeding, and being included in the expedition, the real quest will start.’

Besides, if it was only bringing a user, wouldn’t it be too easy?

Leeha pressed the accept button first.

『You have acquired Fernand’s Last Letter.』

The last letter……? Another scroll popped out .

Was it hidden by magic? Leeha carefully opened Fernand’s last letter.

『I saw it. A huge land in the rising sun of the east……. At that time, if the strength of our fleet was even a little strong, we would have been able to land. Your majesty, please invest in us once more. Grant our wishes for the new continent once more.』


“Grant our wishes ……?”

Does that mean he had the intention of going? But why was the quest asking to bring him?

‘Ah……. He had been rejected.’

The king had not changed since the Human-Demon war. Of course, the current king. He rejected Fernand’s request.

“Fixing the barn and losing the cow…… it was the same whether reality or game.”

It seemed like the rulers of any country the same. It was only after he disappeared that the king realized the importance of the Adventure and Pioneering King.

In any case, if Fernand still had the heart for the expedition, talking to him would be quick. Now, if the king just lets Fernand know that he is willing to invest, fernand will come back.

‘And his location…’

If one is a user, there should be a way to find him. Cause there’s the whisper. Of course, Leeha was confident because of that.

The light on the bookshelf had disappeared. Maybe it was trying to give a hint about the quest.

‘Good. First of all, I was able to a profit, other than my main purpose.’

The places and monsters to hunt in the future were roughly grasped and a quest was also obtained.

Satisfied with his profits, Leeha moved quietly.

‘It’s been over an hour and a half already. I still haven’t found the bookshelf.’

Now that he thought about it, time was running out. Anxiety crept in. In addition, some NPCs were also seen wandering around from a while ago.

Leeha raised his five senses and looked at another bookshelf.

He had another thirty minutes.

It was now almost two hours after he infiltrated the Royal Archives.

With a dizzying name of 『Organizational Collection of Monsters Following the Demon King’s Fragment』.

It was a place full of bookshelves with the words ‘Records on the Second Human-Demon War’ written at the bottom.


‘It’s here…… There’s a lot.’

An overview of the Demon King’s Fragment, the places it appeared, and the records of ancient documents related to the Demon King’s Fragment……. The characteristics of the Demon King’s Fragment, the characteristics of the monster corps led by the Demon King’s Fragment, their invasion route, and location of the invasion, are made with individual scrolls.

How long would it take to look at all these scrolls? A week? A fortnight? It is not a quantity that could be read in just a few hours or days.

‘Oh, I’m curious! But I don’t have time right now!’

I’ll check it out later.

I need to get through the bookshelves and find my main purpose first. I need to find the information and get out of here within an hour.

‘A report on the Battle of Marching Plains… this is it.’

Only 33 related scrolls. A huge amount for a report on a single battle! Leeha quickly unfolded the scrolls.

‘It’s the start of the battle…… No, not this.’

Flip, flip, flip.

He quickly scanned the scrolls. Familiar names appeared in the records of the battle.

‘Lepanto! Haha, it’s not even listed with the nickname Skewer, but it was written that he belonged to the 3rd Army’s 67th Assault Regiment.’

Regarding the supply, the name of the Aelstock weapon shop owner was also visible. There were also records on Browless’s detached unit.

‘Operation with Rapid Fire Browless……. After all, if you’re as talented as the Three Musketeers, you can’t put it into any operation.’

And if this came out, the report should also be here. They haven’t seen Mr. and Mrs. Brown, since Browless returned from the operation.

‘Where is it……’

Sureureureuk, slowly as Leeha opened the scroll, Leeha finally saw a familiar name.

‘Operation where Piercing Brown and Bullseye Elizabeth were a part of. Operation name: Fragmentation.’

The operation of the Human Allied Forces to pierce the enemy’s heart at once…!

Leeha could not contain his excitement as he looked at the bold yet detailed outline of the operation.


‘This is great. They were using the sniper properly.’

It was an operation made by a man who knew well that removing the commander would weaken the enemy’s system.

‘Was that the reason why the two of them went?’

‘In the end, it did not happen.’

The plan to lead the monster army and have the sniper look for a gap did not have any loopholes.

However, as Leeha continued to read, he saw another letter.

Destroy Operation.

Reason for Cancellation: Missing agents.

-Appendix: A collection of oral reports on the disappearance of the agents.

‘Found it!’

Leeha opened his bag after checking the amount of time left.

Step, step, step. There was a sound. No matter how reading the scrolls, he was able to tell that it was the sound of footsteps.

‘Damn it!’

The sound grew louder.

It’s coming. He didn’t know their purpose, but their direction was clear. Leeha quickly opened the bag.

“Lively! Lively!”

“Hey, you puck!”

“Take a look at the Second Human-Demon war side! Rotzak-nim suddenly asked me to check it out!”

“The Chief Mage? But what do I check?”

“I don’t know. Can’t you check if there’s something missing? It was said that an undesirable guest entered the Royal Palace.”

“A record missing at the Royal Archives? It should not be possible. Haha.”

“That’s true. Still. It would be better to check. I’m going to look for the documents on the Three Musketeer’s side, so go take a look at the Human-Demon side.”

As Clark spoke and moved, lively also moved his feet. It was a long way to the Second Human-Demon War category.

“He went to the nearest place while sending me to the farthest. Anyway, why did old man Rotzak suddenly want to check? This is the 1st Human-Demon War and the Minis War over……. Here is-”

The moment Lively turned and went through the bookshelf!

“There’s nothing here.”

Nothing caught his eyes. Only scrolls arranged neatly as usual.

“The scrolling number…… is right.”

In an instant, the NPC’s face hardened. Battle of Marching Plains, a total of 33 scrolls.

“Uh, uh!! Boss!!!”

“What is it? Why? Why?”

Lively’s face turned blue.

What did Rotzak know? He quickly turned back and ran towards the entrance.

“The scroll order! The order has been changed! The order of the last three are different!”

“The order? What are you talking about?”

“The order of the scrolling is-！”

Clark, who ran gaspingly, looked at him in bewilderment.

It was a mistake that humans could make, but it was an unacceptable mistake for NPCs.

“Battle of the Marching Plains! The order of these scrolls is different!”

“The Marching Plains? At that moment, a familiar noise was heard by the two NPCs.

Kukuku…….

The entrance to the Royal Archives was opening. There was only one case where it opens without a reaction from mana. It was not to enter but to exit.

“Emergency!!”

Clark and Lively ran at the same time

“Haa, haa.”

He almost got caught! He almost his !

He expected that it wouldn’t open quietly, but Leeha didn’t expect it to1 be so damn loud. Besides that, he heard a shout at the end.

‘Emergency? They are calling for an emergency? So what will happen?’

Will alarms sound? He thought about it, but he did not stop his steps. Leeha exhaled and left the Royal Archives.

‘If I get caught, it’s over. But I can’t even run!’

About 20 minutes until the time limit. At around 20:40 pm in the Royal Palace, an outsider without a special purpose was running around all of a sudden?

No matter what happens, it was perfect to get people’s attention and become the primary suspect.

Leeha thought about walking as casually as possible, but he couldn’t help but worry.

Step, step, step.

Leeha climbed the stairs with an alarming speed.

‘Please don’t come, please, please, please.’

However, not everything you wish for would come true. As soon as he went up half the stairs, he heard a shout.

“Catch him! Where did he go! Run! Run!”

He heard voices from behind.

Step, step, step, the sound of fast running steps entered Leeha’s ear in an instant.

‘To run? Or not to run?’

Leeha worried for a moment. The problem is that there was no one else in the Eastern Palace besides Leeha! Leeha also started running.

I should not get caught!

Leeha jumped up the stairs almost flying and toward the entrance Eastern Palace. There must be a guard outside the palace, will they just let me go? But he couldn’t help it, he would be forced to !

“Huh?”

“Uh?”

Paak–!

The guards stared blankly at the strange sight.

In haste, a man ran out of the palace and bumped into someone. Even the person he bumped into was not an ordinary person.

“Keuh…… Who is running out of the palace at night!”

“I-I’m sorry!”

Leeha couldn’t even lift his head and got up and moved his feet, but he felt a hand grabbing his shoulder.

“Right now, due to an emergency, everything in the Eastern Palace- huh? Ha Leeha-ssi?”

Leeha felt a strong force. However, what was more surprising was the voice behind that force. Besides, it was someone who was able to recognize Leeha…?

Leeha slowly lifted his head and looked at the person’s face.

“Sir… Syndergaard?”

“Ahaha, it has been a while. You’re already able to come to the Royal Palace?”

The armor of the Sacred Knight shone in the moonlight.

Syndergaard greeted Leeha with a pleasant smile, but Leeha did not even have time to reply.

Just then, he heard a noise behind his back.

“Oh!! Sacred Knight! You got him! You caught him!”

“Haa, that person, haa, that person-!” Clark and Lively ran up the stairs and approached Leeha.

The NPCs of the Sacred Knight, royal Archives, and Royal Palace Guard.

Leeha wanted to cry.

“Chief Clark and Librarian Lively.”

“Good job, sacred Knight.”

“What are you talking about?”

“He, haa, he is presumed to have entered the Royal Records illegally.”

Clark and Lively told Syndergaard while gasping.

(To be continued…)
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Syndergaard was confused but the two NPCs’ guess was natural. Because there was no other user in the Eastern Palace, the person to suspect would be the closest outlander.

‘Also…… it’s also natural to think like this. Now what? How do I refute that?’

In a brief moment, thousands of ideas entered Leeha’s mind.

Will I get caught? Should I ask for evidence? Should I just run away? No, that’s impossible. I have to lie.

I have to fool all these NPCs. Leeha managed his facial expression.

Even with just one wrong twitch of his face would be dangerous.

“What does that mean-”

“No, it can’t be.”

“Yes?”

It wasn’t Leeha who made a firm voice. Syndergaard’s expression hardened.

“It was true that I came here because of the emergency, but I can’t make an arrest without evidence. Not to mention, this person has a cooperation with the Sacred Knights. He was the one who succeeded in sniping the Kobold Chieftain Hijuit-Ka just recently.”

“W-what do you mean by that? He’s still the most suspicious person to enter the Royal Archives-”

“It is impossible to make an arrest just because of some suspicion, chief Clark. Although it is possible to conduct surveillance and search in an emergency, keep in mind that arrest and seizure is impossible. Moreover, it is even more unpleasant to be suspicious of Leeha-ssi, a comrade of the Sacred Knights and my personal friend.”

Leeha almost cried tears of joy from Syndergaard’s words.

Of course, there was also a feeling of guilt. He didn’t expect Syndergaard to defend him!

“Cough……. I see. I’ll have to look for evidence. By the way, if you sniped the Kobold Chieftain, are you a musketeer?”

“Yes. That’s right. Should I be suspected because I was in the Royal Palace? As Sir Syndergaard just said, I-”

“I’m sure you know Browless.”


“- was the one who managed to catch… Hijuit-Ka!”

Hearing Clark’s words, Leeha forced himself to finish his sentence. He pretended not to hear Browless’s name.

“Good. It should be fine, you won’t be able to take the record anyway. I’ll have to go and check the records one by one. If he really was the intruder in the Royal Archives, you will be responsible for letting him go. I will also hold the Sacred Knights accountable.”

“I understand, chief Clark. Now, shall we go, Ha Leeha-ssi?”

“Ah, yes. Thank you.”

Clark and Lively looked at Leeha, but Leeha naturally turned his back on them.

Leaving behind the guards of the Royal Palace, Leeha and Sir Syndergaard went out of the Palace Garden.

“I was almost accused of being the culprit. Thank you, sir Syndergaard.”

Step, step. Leeha thought about the quest while stepping on the grass.

‘I was caught by a Sacred Knight…… but it would only be a failure if I got caught by the guards of the Royal Palace.’

So does that mean it would be fine if it’s a Sacred Knight? Leeha barely suppressed the laughter that was about to burst out of his mouth.

“It was nothing. Keepers are always sensitive and thorny, so be careful. By the way, why did you come to the Royal Palace?”

“Ah, that-”

Wondering what to say, Leeha saw another person walking through the darkness on the west side of the palace.

“Sir Syndergaard.”

“Browless-nim.”

A person saluted to the Sacred Knight and approached.

“I had to meet someone for a while. In the meantime, my disciple lost his way, so I came to pick him up.”

And he called Leeha his disciple. Leeha rolled his eyes and looked at Browless.

Browless smiled under his hooded hat.


“I see. I’ve been wanting to meet and talk to Ha Leeha-ssi for a long time. It’s unfortunate.”

“We can meet again next time. Haha, thank you for today, sir Syndergaard. ”

“You’re welcome. I would like to ask you to continue doing your best for the Fibiel Kingdom. Well then.”

After Syndergaard disappeared, Leeha and Browless left without saying anything.

“Have you met Rotzak?”

“No, they said he wasn’t there. However, there was no way the Chief Mage leave the palace. He is avoiding me.”

“Hmm.”

Listening to Browless’s words, Leeha remembered the conversation between Clark and Lively earlier.

There’s definitely something to contend with.

“Did you succeed?”

Leeha just laughed.

It was after they passed the that the two high-fived.

“You have it.”

“That’s right.”

Leeha nodded while checking on the quest window.

It certainly did not appear to be a failure.

“It contains testimonies related to the disappearance of Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth.”

Leeha quickly recorded things as soon as he heard Lively’s footsteps. Although the time was tight and mistakes were made, the important details were definitely included.

Browless took the item and played it.

Click.


Late at night, on one side of the darkened wall of the director’s room, the reports that Leeha recorded were reflected.

The time of the report and the ones who reported are different.

However, with only the records of the oral report, Leeha could outline the two people’s actions.

It should be the same with Browless.

The report was tagged as 『Top Secret』, followed by the contents of the report as well as the reporter’s signature.

-At 21:00, we found two people leaving the barracks and heading to the Demon King’s army. Hearing the reporter’s call to stop, they fired at the reporter instead. (Thigh wound, unable to fight.)

-The next day, at 08:00. The two were found 20km away from the barracks. Since they had never been instructed to do a cooperative operation they approached and fired randomly. After being shot, I heard cries and apologies, but I couldn’t pursue them. (Gunshot wounds on the upper arm, shoulder, and side, unable to fight.)

-10:00. Two people fired at the party platoon that was having a skirmish with the Demon King army. They were crying and did not stop firing. (The entire platoon was neutralized, unable to fight.)

-13:00. Ms. Elizabeth wrapped her stomach and sat on the floor. In accordance with the order to report Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth if they are found, he tried to report but his knees were pierced by Mr. Brown. (Leg amputated, unable to fight.)

The report was terrible.

None of the reporters who found the two returned without any injuries.

Since then, no report came for a long time.

It was noted that the monsters did not attack as the two passed by. The two people along with some monsters also killed this and that.

The records of the Royal Archives had set its opinion in a certain direction.

It was clear that the two of them had joined the Demon King’s army.

-23:00, the two arrived at the 67th regiment, who had not yet heard the order to capture Mr. and Mrs. Brown. Leaving the barracks after receiving basic supplies. Immediately after leaving, an order came from the headquarters ….

Leeha’s eyes were drawn to the end of the report instead of the ones that are reflected on the wall. The name of the reporters was familiar to Leeha.

‘Lepanto……

Did Lepanto go after them, after finding it out later? The reports continued afterward.

– Reports followed, but they failed to capture them. The agents fled to the Demon King’s Army with another agent (presumed to be a dark elf). The agents said to them that they should not look after them and that they should be careful of Rotzak (currently the 3rd Corps of the Allied Forces). It was believed to be a deceptive operation to lower the morale of allies. (Disabled left arm function due to the aftermath of the battle. There is a chance of amputation. Note on the battle.)

Beware of Rotzak?

Mr. and Mrs. Brown said that?

Dizzying thoughts floated around Leeha’s head. Brown and Elizabeth warned Lepanto.

Leeha thought that Rotzak was promoted because he covered up the fact that the two of them left.

But what about the warning? They have not left yet.

But why did they tell him to be careful?

‘And did Lepanto go to Rotzak and report to him after hearing that? It would have been right to judge that it was a deception operation…… He lost more than half of his life due to memory control magic.’

Even though the Three Musketeers are legends, at a point of time where they were already defined as ‘enemies’, they wouldn’t have even thought of trusting their words and .

‘Besides, the arm…… his arm was cut off because of those two.’

So, after getting back his memory, he may have gritted his teeth and chased after the two of them.

– Additional testimony, the result of Ms. Elizabeth’s medical examination before the fragment crushing operation. There was even a warning to be careful before proceeding with the operation.

Uwaah!”

Leeha shouted without realizing it. Pregnant? Does this mean that she participated in the war against the demons while pregnant?

‘And with that body…… She had great achievements……And the fact that those who went after them have been ……’ hile they were male musketeer and female musketeer was unbelievable.

Bang-!

‘Hmm?’

With an unfamiliar sound, Leeha realized that he wasn’t watching alone.

They were amazing records, so he was looking at them with interest…… else?

What about the feelings of the Musketeer that was one of the ‘Three Musketeers’ along with them? When he heard Leeha say that the two of them betrayed humanity, didn’t director Browless point a gun into his mouth?

‘Is it another rampage……?’

Fortunately, he didn’t move.

There was only a stream of blood running down the side of his lips.

“Why…… why didn’t you say anything…?”

The last member of the Three Musketeers, whose teeth were stained red, rapid fire Browless, put his head down the desk.

“Director-nim……

How are you feeling? Are you feeling betrayed? Despair? Anger towards your comrades?

“Isn’t it funny?”

“Yes?”

“The Three Musketeers…… The three of us were together for a long time. I didn’t even know she was pregnant.”

“B-but…… Maybe Ms. Elizabeth didn’t know.”

“They didn’t say anything to me. Those two… What the hell did they think of me?”

Browless stared blankly into the air. It looked like he had been abandoned.

“On the other hand, now I…… I feel relieved.”

“Re……lieved?”

“I even think that it’s fortunate that they are alive. Those two betrayed humanity? Even when I saw a record of them shooting their allies! Ha! I can’t believe I am the director of the academy……“

“Something…… Something must have happened. The words to be careful of Rotzak must have come from something……”

That was the most suspicious thing right now.

The person Brown and Elizabeth warned Lepanto about. After all, he was the person who cast the spell directly on Lepanto.

Only one line from a long report.

It was so annoying that it was only mentioned once.

“Right, there must be something else. There should be more.”

Browless leaned back on the chair and slumped down.

Leeha felt sorry for Browless who looked like a person who completely lost his motivation.

It seemed to mean that it didn’t matter now whether there was more or not.

(To be continued…)
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“What about now……?”

“Ah, right. I didn’t even say thank you. Thank you so much, Leeha-kun. After all, you are the only one I can trust right now.”

『Lost Legends quest completed.』

『You leveled up.』

『You leveled up.』

“Can you…… can you come back after a few days?”

“Yes, I will.”

『The Agony of the Last of the Three Musketeers』

Description: ‘Why did they……. I guess I have no choice but to meet them in person. But, I don’t even know where the Demon King’s Army is. I am so tired.’

Browless wants some time to sort out his thoughts about his colleagues that betrayed him. Please come back after at least 3 days to hear his thoughts.

Description: After at least 3 days, talk to Browless.

Reward: ??

– Would you like to accept?

‘Hmm. After 3 days of Middle Earth time, I can come back to talk to Browless…’

It wasn’t because of this quest that Leeha took the time to think.

‘Is this the end? I completed the quest to infiltrate the Royal Archives, which raised my level by 2 from the quest experience. Is this all the reward?’

The reward said ‘??’, what could it be? This isn’t everything, right? I even acted as a bloody spy!

“I understand, director-nim.”

Of course, he couldn’t force it.


“Thank you.”

“Then…… rest well. I will be back in a few days.”

Leeha pressed the accept button and left the director’s room. Even after completing the quest, he felt uncomfortable.

‘Three days…… I can’t waste time while waiting.’

It was not like he was going to wait impatiently. Of course, Leeha should do something else.

The Royal Records were good, and the Three Musketeers are great, but there was something more important to Leeha.

‘Actually, this is the most important thing. At least from my perspective right now.’

『Sacred Grill Capital Branch Opening』

Description: Deliver a lunchbox and a letter to Madame Ju in Aelstock, within a month (10 days remaining).

I don’t have much time. Now I have to complete it. And the method Leeha thought was quite simple.

‘I have to meet Madame Ju. We should meet and talk.’

Leeha opened the map. He didn’t know if they would be able to talk tonight, but he already figured out where Madame Ju lives.

‘In the map…… there’s a residential area behind the market. It should be somewhere around there. Do NPCs sleep at night?’

‘Let’s meet her.’

Leeha went to the residential area. It felt awkward and amazing to see the house where NPCs stayed at night, but he didn’t have time to enjoy such things.

Leeha searched for Madam Ju by knocking on the doors of every house he saw.

Knock, knock, knock.

And like that, he had knocked at a lot of houses.

Finally, the door opened.

“Who are you looking…… this late at night?”


A woman wearing only a dark red slip.

The moonlight shone on the clothes, revealing a woman boasting a bewitching figure.

“Nice to meet you.”

“Of course, it’s nice to meet you as well, this late at night.”

“Ah, that…… it’s not-”

“Who are you?”

“Ah, I… How should I say this?”

Suddenly, blood rushed to Leeha’s head and he forgot what to say. Wasn’t he here to deliver the lunchbox?

“Madam Lu sent me.”

“……My sister?”

“Ah, haha. Yes. This meat…… She made a new dry food and asked me to give this to her sister.”

Leeha rummaged through his bag.

What nonsense was this! However, since it had already come out of his mouth, he could not stop.

Fortunately, there were pieces of cooked rabbit meat left in the bag.

‘If I hadn’t learned to cook from Kiyomi, I wouldn’t have been able to make any excuses.’

He picked up the cured meat and smiled. Madame Ju looked at him with a puzzled expression.

“What’s wrong with unni? Was that it?”

“Yes, that was it. Haha. The Holy Grill business is busy these days, so she asked me.”

But will it? Madame Ju looked down for a long time. Normally, she would have invited him in or even accepted the meat, but Madame Ju remained still.

Leeha felt it at Candle Castle, but NPCs do not act recklessly.


From a human point of view, she was tenacious and had a laid-back attitude.

‘And in such cases, there was always a keyword. What is it?’

But Leeha knew the keyword that could move Madame Ju.

“And there was something I wanted to tell you. The lunchbox is on the way.”

“Lunchbox……?”

Leeha did not miss Madame Ju’s twinkling eyes.

After all, the keyword was lunchbox.

However, she should not know that Leeha was the one delivering the lunchbox. He tried to dig up information—.

“Yes. It’s a bit difficult to have a conversation in a place like this……

“Right, come in.”

Madam Ju finally invited him in.

Leeha entered Madame Ju’s house without hesitation.

‘Huuu…… How many users have visited the NPC’s house? Is she among the common people in the Middle Ages?…… No, she is middle class.’

“Sit down. Do you want some coffee? Tea? Alcohol?”

“I would like some tea.”

He did not feel any presence of other NPCs in the house. It was a house where she lived alone.

‘Cough! What am I even thinking about, you bastard!’

Leeha’s eyes met Madam Ju’s.

Leeha forced his head to turn and smiled.

“So…… What did my sister say? Did she say that it would go well this time?”

This time? This time as well?

“Ah, yes…… I heard her say it was a reliable person?”

“Phew…… I received such a letter last time, but there has been no news for the past three months. It has happened so many times already.”

Many times? As expected…….

Leeha nodded, savoring the tea.

‘I wasn’t the first. I don’t know how many others before me, but they all kept the lunchbox.’

They were eaten or sold.

No, Kijung said he had never heard of such an item. Most likely, everyone else ate it.

“By the way…… Is it really that hard to open a store in the capital?”

“What?”

“Even in the marketplace…… There are also weapon stores, tailor shops, and taverns…… I was wondering what would be different if you opened another restaurant there.”

“Oh my? I guess my sister did not tell you anything?”

What is she talking about? Why do they need to lobby? Is there anything different? Leeha tilted his head, but Madame Ju only smiled.

No, there was something weird from the very beginning.

It was not a dangerous business, so why do they need a bribe to open a restaurant?

Leeha’s brain began to work.

There was something in there. Isn’t giving hints one of the quirks of Middle Earth?

‘What? Why would it be necessary?’

First, Leeha needed to check a few things. First, the value on the lunchbox.

“The lunchbox…… is it really important? I, I heard it’s precious…… haha, but I don’t know why.”

“It can’t be described with words. The boss monster of Candle Castle…… What if we sold it here? Maybe a gourmet would like to try it.”

“If you want to try it…… you need to have a lot of money.”

“Hmm, a lot of money. Can you express it gracefully? Powerful people…… Since it is a boss monster of an instance dungeon, its meat would be hard to get. Leeha himself already knew it.

It meant that supply would be limited, but the demand would be high.”

And most of the demands would come from ‘powerful people’.

‘There are many powerful people who want it, but there is only one lunchbox brought to the capital. Then, wouldn’t it be right to give it to the most powerful among those powerful people?’

Even if they wanted to give it to many people, they would not be able to, because there was only one.

Madame Ju looked at Leeha with a teasing expression. Seeing that teasing face, a thought flashed through Leeha’s mind.

“No, then… no way?”

“Shh.”

“Ugh!”

Madam Ju’s finger pressed down on Leeha’s lips.

But his thoughts did not stop.

Who was the strongest person among the powerful people? Who was the most powerful person in the capital?

The king? Is this lunchbox going to be given to the king?

If the king was a gourmand…… Of course, he would be the one that Madame Lu is targeting. There was no one higher than the king in this country.

“Is that true?”

“Well. I just do what my sister tells me to do.”

Could it be that the target was really the king?

Once the target for the lunchbox had been decided, the next thing to ask would be the purpose. What are they going to do? Just open a restaurant?

“You’re funny…… I see why my sister is interested in you.”

“Yes?”

“Nothing. What else would you like to know? What if it’s like this? In the capital city. The most powerful people in the continent go to the Fibiel Kingdom. It would be the largest gathering on the continent.”

“Ah…… yes. This.”

“What if we could bring those people in one place?”

“In one place……? Well? Just thinking about it is terrifying.”

The people lining up in front of the warp gate would be enormous. The marketplace would be full of people.

Bringing those people together? Making a restaurant..’.

‘The taste of the meat from the Holy Grill is quite unique… I’m sure people will gather. What if there are a lot of people?’

A lot of people?

Leeha’s eyes looked bewildered.

“Information…… Information……. No, then this lunchbox isn’t meant to be used to open a restaurant, is it? Thinking about it…… information guild? Are you going to create an information guild-”

“This lunchbox?”

“Oh? Ah, no. That lunchbox.”

He almost got caught. Leeha sighed, picked up the teacup, and organized his thoughts.

‘Right…… The capital…… with a floating population that would explode. What if they bring those powerful people together?’

Of course, it will be noisy. The stories that they would share while eating and drinking after not seeing each other for a long time. What’s inside those stories?

It’s information.

‘That woman.. is crazy. Wasn’t she an NPC in the beginner village?’

Oheungheung, madam Ju’s smile reminded Leeha of Madame Lu.

Didn’t he just go to find a place where he could grill good rabbit meat? Did they have such a grand plan to create an intelligence guild in the capital? If one thought about it, the quest fits quite well. Creating a guild is not something that could be done arbitrarily. And if it was a guild dealing with information, of course, there was no way to give permission to just anyone.

(To be continued…)
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‘Isn’t that too realistic?’

So Madame Lu was offering the lunchbox to the king or to a person with power close to the king.

Of course, the name of the intelligence guild would be covered with a sign that reads ‘Holy Grill’.

And what makes this situation is the ”will of the users”

Leeha felt goosebumps all over his body.

‘It will be decided… depending on whether I give her the lunchbox or not.’

The creation of the most covert intelligence agency in the whole continent. What would happen if I had a hand on it?

Wouldn’t it be easy for Leeha to get any information he needs anytime? If so, was it worth it?

‘If I sold this lunchbox, I am guaranteed to have at least 100 million. Will the intelligence guild be worth more than 100 million?’

Leeha shook his head.

“What is it?”

“Ah, nothing. The tea is very delicious. Hmm〜 haha.”

“Huh.”

Madame Chu’s expression was difficult to read.

NPCs tend to give him hints on their facial expressions and actions, however, she was a woman with a stranger atmosphere than Madam Lu of Candle Castle.

“Well, then I will-”

“Didn’t you say that you came to deliver dry food?”

“Yes? Dry…… ah, right. Dry food.”


He got dizzy because of his thoughts and he couldn’t even. Leeha hurriedly took out the cured meat and handed it over to Madame Chu.

“This? hmm……. Did my sister send you here to brag about her rusty skills?”

When Madame Chu had a worried look on her face, Leeha felt something prick his conscience.

“Then, I’m going.”

As Leeha got up from his seat, madam Chu also got up.

“It was nothing. It’s nothing, if you were sent by my sister then it was only natural. Huhu, goodbye.”

Before Leeha could reply, madame Ju closed the door.

Shudder. And it was locked.

Leeha, who stood in front of the door for a moment, was busy organizing his thoughts.

Intelligence Guild. Did he guess it right?

“Given that woman’s reaction, it was clear that she was doing something related to information…. Ah, such a headache.”

Leeha’s primary purpose was to make money.

However, in Middle Earth where nothing was certain, he had no choice but to think about it carefully every time.

Do other people play like this? Leeha headed to the auction house with his head throbbing for some reason.

‘I should go and sell the Kobold’s Eonwoldo. Now that I don’t have any spare money and my bag is getting heavy.’

Of course, he had no time to look back.

Little did he know that the locked door had been secretly opened again, and Madam Ju had was looking intently at Leeha’s back through the narrow doorway.

“I’m looking forward to your decision, Ha Leeha. Huhu.”

Leeha opened his bag and checked his belongings. He had around 80 silver.

‘No money, no gunpowder, and no bullets. I am playing the game to make money, so why do I keep living like a beggar.’


At the same time he sighed, he could hear a humming sound. Unlike NPCs, users did not differentiate between day and night.

“Selling level 50 two-handed sword! Cheaper than the store, cheaper than the auction house!”

“Selling level 130 wand〜 selling to save some money for the auction house! Please buy it!”

Leeha arrived at the Aelstock auction house without realizing it.

Since the auction information is shared within the same country, there an advantage that items can be bought and sold in any city an auction house.

‘The disadvantage was that the fee could get as high as 5%.’

Even though the buyer and seller receive what they bought and sold, Middle Earth had a variety of ways for collecting users’ fees.

It was natural that low-level users had a hard time raising money.

There were many complaints from users about the auction fee, it was impossible not to use it. It was profitable to register at the auction house and start hunting or do other things while waiting for the item to be sold.

‘That is also the reason why guilds are trying to get cities and castles.’

How good would it be to sit still and earn money from the fees and taxes?

“Now, let’s see……“

Leeha activated the bulletin board next to the auction house. In an instant, a system window appeared in front of him.

Although he had never used it, the auction house system was generally easy to use, so Leeha was able to use it easily.

『Kobold Chieftain’s Special Eonwoldo』 Attack power: 105 〜 120 Class: Melee, two-handed Spear

Effect: Agility +6, critical Rate +15% Requirement: Strength 150 or higher, agility 110 or higher

Description: Used by the deputy commander of monsters during the second human-demon war It is still sharp as it contains the essence of kobold artisans. It was recorded that the blood of the humans cut by the blade could form a river. Additional Effect: Set effect 3: Critical Hit Rate +10%

Set effect 4: Critical Hit Rate +15%

Set effect 5: Critical Hit Rate +20%.

And he checked the prices of items with similar attack power.


The next thing he did was to set the price after sufficiently considering the difference in the abilities of items with similar requirements as the Kobold’s Eonwoldo, and then put it up for auction.

‘First of all, there are no items similar to this one……. An excellent two-handed spear with similar attack power…… there are quite a few.’

A list of items with a minimum attack power of around 100 and maximum attack power of around 120 were floating around. All of them were of excellent quality and the requirements were similar.

Of course, their prices were the same.

Even though they had the same price, it made Leeha’s mouth wide open.

‘What is this? Average 60 gold?’

6 million won?

‘Why is it so expensive? In addition, if you look at the required stats, it was almost necessary to exceed level 100 to use it. No, should it be around 110?’

Was the difference in performance between the excellent and special grade this big? Leeha’s mouth was left open.

The Kobold Chieftain’s Eonwoldo, which was dropped by Hijuit-ka, was equivalent to a 60 gold two-handed spear of around level 110.

What about the effects? It does not even need to be mentioned!

Compared to the +2, +3 agility from superior grade, it was almost doubled. Moreover, how much more will the critical hit rate increase? It’s an option that could not even be dreamed of at the top level.

For most melee dealers who didn’t turn off their Combat Assistance System, the critical hit rate was nothing short of a huge perk.

‘The level requirement to use the Kobold Eonwoldo was around 50, and most melee dealers could use it until 60.’

The required level was half, but they had similar attack power.

How much should I set it?

“Phew…… daaaamn……. Uwaahahahahaha!”

Leeha couldn’t hold back his laughter.

He had been complaining about his life being similar to a beggar, but suddenly he felt like the whole world was surrounded by flowers.

“Ugh, thank you for the food auntie.”

“Yes, thank you. Come again.

‘

However, during lunchtime at its peak, there was no time to rest.

They brought out new food right away, and they also had to look after the counter. Besides, the place had to be cleared, so they had no time to rest.

“We’re going to order here please!”

“When are the of meat coming out?”

“I’m coming, we’re almost done!”

“Kim! Kim! Come quickly and get some of this! Take orders over there!”

A middle-aged woman in a bombshell perm sat and grumbled.

“Yes, unni. I’ll be there soon.”

“Do it quickly. How many years have you been doing this? Oh my.”

There was not even time to make a bad tea, so Leeha’s mother worked hard.

A squeaking sound while moving without hesitation.

Even at a sad moment where she couldn’t eat her own meal in order to take care of other people’s meals, Leeha’s mother had only one thought.

‘I want to go take care of my son……’

Worrying about her son became disabled.

At least he improved a lot after installing some kind of machine, as Kijung, his son’s younger cousin said.

‘It’s kimchi saury stew, so I just need to heat it up and eat it.’

Leeha’s mother stopped thinking about her son.

“Kim! What are you thinking? Why aren’t you working fast?”

“Ah, yes. I’m now, unni.”

“Oh yeah! There’s a dinner party at the company next door, so don’t forget to set up a table for 20 people! Here and there, the guests are leaving! You have to check their bills, what are you standing there for?”

“Yes.”

Why does she have to repeat everything? Leeha’s mother smiled.

‘The harder it is, the more I have to smile. I can’t get annoyed for my son.’

And when the afternoon lunch rush, the busiest of the restaurant, was over, her phone vibrated.

– Mom, did you eat?

– I’m eating right now, what about you?

Her eyes had started to turn a little gloomy recently.. In addition, she had a hard time replying to her son.

– I already ate. I had a quick meal. And what’s your account number mom?

-Why is my son asking about my bank account number?. Eventually, she couldn’t stand it and .

“Hello? Son!”

-Ah, mom. Is it okay to call right now?

“Yes. The busy time is over. Why are you asking for the account all of a sudden?”

When she heard Leeha’s bright voice on the phone, she also gained strength. It’s the effect of the mother-child relationship where one feels better just by hearing one child’s voice.

– It’s nothing, what is it? I won something like a giveaway. I need an account number.

“Giveaway? What giveaway all of a sudden? What lottery ticket did you buy?”

– I don’t know either. What lottery ticket they were talking about. Just give me your account number. Oh, mom, what time will you leave work today?

“I’ll send my account number…… but it’s not something weird is it? Something like a credit card-”

– Hey, don’t be like that. Don’t worry and take a picture of your account. I have no legs, but it doesn’t mean that I don’t have a brain.

“Hey! Don’t say that, even if it’s a joke. We will fix it soon.”

Even just hearing it made her heart sink. On the contrary, to Leeha’s mother who had a heavy heart, Leeha was laughing.

“After work…… we can set up a dinner party, so I should arrive before 8 o’clock.”

– Then shall we eat beef after so long, mom?

“You want to eat meat?”

– No…… that …… we’ll just eat a simple meal from the giveaway money.

Was it a giveaway worth 30,000 won? Leeha’s mother just and did not answer.

They were not so poor that she could not buy beef, but she always saving money to pay for her son’s treatment.

“Right, okay.”

– Yes, send me the account immediately mom. Also, check the deposit amount. Take care and take it easy.

When she saw the owner, it was very strange.

“You’re not supposed to say that! You too, eat and rest well.”

– I take a break every day, so it should be easy. All right mom. I love you!

He was definitely a bright boy.

(To be continued…)
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“Okay.”

Waiting for his mother’s message, Leeha accessed the internet.

Browless told him to come back in 3 days and in terms of time, if he logged in tomorrow, 3 days would have passed in Middle Earth.

‘How long has it been since I had time to relax?’

Even after logging out, he had no time to spare.

As if being chased by someone, he searched for information through the internet and then logged back in again to get things done. In general, it was not advisable to go back to reality while doing a time-limited quest.

It had been 2 weeks now since the Middle Earth connector had been installed, and the creation of the character Ha Leeha. It seemed like a short time ago, but it didn’t feel that way.

Because he had spent more than two months on Middle Earth.

“It can certainly be used for the treatment of mental illness……”

That’s right.

Even a simple thought can be five times more useful if it was on Middle Earth.

What if they made a copy of a book in reality and put it on Middle Earth? Reading 2 books a day, in reality, is equivalent to reading 10 books on Middle Earth.

The ‘Great Library’ was built in Aelstock, but Leeha did not visit it yet because he had only been hunting and questing.

Although the real name was not used, Leeha knew what the painting, drawn in the large library, meant.

‘They were talking about it loudly from the start. There were three open books. With the word VERITAS written in it……‘

The Great Library was built by Harvard University, one of the most famous universities on the planet, and had many older players.

They were people who accessed Middle Earth, not to enjoy the game, but to read more effectively than reality.

‘That was why there were so many subscribers. The more of them are, the better for me’


The reason he was able to evade his mother’s questions was that there were so many users. Leeha had a bright smile.

Because of what awaits him in the future.

Riing—.

“Oh, it’s here.”

As his heart beat, his cellphone rang as well. Leeha quickly checked the account her mother sent.

‘Well then……‘

Ah! Suddenly, a person came to Leeha’s mind. Leeha immediately called his cousin, Kijung.

– Hello? Huh?

“Hey, Kijung. Are you busy?”

– No, I’m not busy, I can’t access Middle Earth, so I don’t have anything to do. By the way, what happened, why are you in reality?

Kijung’s voice had laughter mixed in.

After being beheaded by Agromni Igor, he wondered if he was still depressed, but it seems he is feeling much better now.

Being high-leveled in Middle Earth might mean getting used to death.

“I thought you might still be weeping, so I called you for some meat. Do you have time for dinner?”

– Dinner? Haha, you’ll treat me to meat?

“Yeah…… Come to our house at 8 o’clock. Let’s eat some meat.”

– Ohh, really? What’s with you today?

“Haha, don’t be shy. Let’s talk about it later. Come on time.”

– I want to know!

Hearing Kijung’s shrill voice, Leeha ended the call.


After the accident Leeha didn’t want to remember, Kijung was one of the people who helped Leeha regain his liveliness, who until then had lived with dead eyes. The first celebration party cannot happen without Kijung.

‘Haha…… it’s a celebration party.’

It should be enough to call it that.

Leeha accessed the bank’s site. I have to prepare the meat we would eat before mother and Kijung arrive, so I think I will have to move quite a bit.

“Kim! Kim! Have you finished setting up?”

“There are still two more hours dinner time, unni.”

“What if the customers come earlier? Wouldn’t it be better if you prepare in advance?”

“But the other guests-”

“Are you talking back now?”

“……No, I will do it now.”

‘Why is she twisting my words? Phew, I’m still glad that the paycheck comes on time. In today’s world……’

‘Its not easy to find a new job, and it’s not a bad job as long as one endure the hysteria.’

Leeha’s mother comforted herself while setting up the dinner table.

Riing, riing—.

‘Oh my, a text message?’

She put the towels and cups aside as the phone in her pocket was ringing.

– Is the money deposited now? I also called Kijung. Should I go and buy meat for later? Call me when you get , mom! Let’s fill our stomachs with delicious beef!

‘There’s no way he could go out……. How much should I buy if he called Kijung? But why did he call Kijung all of a sudden?’

Even her son, who was obsessed with “beef”, a bit strange today.

And she checked the second text message. Bank deposit and withdrawal notification text.


‘I think it’s about 100,000?’

『Hanil Bank』10/5 16:53

097601* * *334* * *48 Ha Leeha deposit: 9,999,990 Balance: 10,474,886

“Huh?”

Is the text wrong? She rubbed her eyes and looked again.

However, the numbers did not change. Judging from the fact that the text message contained her debit card number, it was definitely a text message from the bank.

“This is my account number…… right?”

The name of the depositor was Ha Leeha. Her son’s name was there. But what was with this deposit……?

“Nine……. Nine……. Nine, nine……”

She was not imitating a pigeon’s voice.

“N-nine million won! Nine million won? Nine hundred? No, how, nine hundred, what?”

Leeha’s mother was bewildered and tried to check the account through telebanking, but neither the deposit amount nor the balance changed.

“Unbelievable…… where did my son……“

“Kim! What are you doing, why are you not working?”

She did not hear the middle-aged woman’s annoyed shout at that moment.

Nine million nine hundred ninety-nine thousand nine hundred ninety-nine.

That was the money Leeha had earned in two weeks of playing Middle Earth.

“Hehe, I knew this would happen.”

Leeha checked the caller and smiled. Of course, it was unbelievable.

“Yes, mom.”

“Son! My son!!! What is this?”

“What do you mean? It’s money. Haha.”

“Is it from a giveaway? What kind of giveaway gives this amount of money? Did you do anything illegal?”

“What? What do you ?”

“You didn’t do anything strange and bad?”

“Mom! You don’t believe in your son that much?”

Aigoo, even at this time Leeha’s mother was concerned for her child. Somehow, Leeha’s eyes seemed to turn red.

“No, anyway, this money…… I can’t. I have to give this back. If we receive such a large amount, we might get into trouble later.”

“Ah! Ah! Mom, don’t worry. You can use that. In fact, it’s not a giveaway prize. I earned it.”

“What? Earned?”

“Yes.”

Leeha couldn’t hold back a warm smile.

He was even proud of her mother had lived a life like this.

‘How? Aren’t you going to ask?’

Was she afraid that her son might get hurt?

“I’ll tell you how I earned it when you get home later. Together with Kijung.”

“Hmm, o-okay.”

Leeha’s mother had a trembling voice.

In case his mother gets sad, Leeha quickly and energetically “I’ll prepare everything so you have to come home quickly! I’m hanging up!”

“Okay. Wait for us, even if you’re hungry.”

Phew.

As soon as he up the phone, Leeha sighed. He suddenly remembered his past sorrows.

The days when he failed to find a job, being ignored because he was disabled. The organizations that refused to hire him using vague reasons.

And when he did not have any motivation until he started Middle Earth.

“Now…… those times are over. The only thing left to do is move forward.”

He did not know what he could do before. But he knew now. Once one knows how to do it, isn’t it going to be faster from then on.

“In order to make money…… I have to get stronger.”

The Kobold Chieftain’s Eonwoldo is a rare drop, and the item could be used at around level 50, so its value was high.

He received 110 gold from selling it. After deducting the fee, he got 100 gold, and he sold the gold for cash.

After deducting the fees, 1 to 1.64 million won.

Leeha transferred about 10 million won to his mother.

‘He still had 10 gold left…… in Middle Earth …it was because he didn’t need a lot of gold.’

It was enough money to buy a lot of gunpowder.

For a brief moment, he thought about buying a new weapon, but after thinking about it carefully, he felt that it was not yet the time.

He had just changed weapons recently, so he couldn’t waste money to buy another one.

‘And…… what if I caught another boss?’

Because Kobolds are not the only ones that have a chieftain.

There were also goblins and orcs. No, there are also a lot of beast monsters aside from those.

What if he hunted while looking for those boss monsters?

Of course, there was no information on when, where, or how to get them to come out. It would be nice if he could find some information on that. No one else could find it, but Leeha had a way.

“I can do it. Hehe……. I can do it.”

It suddenly became more realistic to earn 2 billion won or 20,000 gold. Leeha smiled happily and started to open the newspaper.

A little over 8 o’clock, Leeha’s mother came home.

Both hands were full of meat and fruits…. The plastic bags in both her hands are so full that they are on the verge of being torn.

“Mom! You should have called me if you have bought so much-”

“Son! What is going on?”

“Aaak! I-I’m suffocating!”

Leeha’s mother hugged him and shed tears.

Even though she promised to herself not to cry again, she couldn’t hold back her tears.

One drop went down to Leeha’s cheeks.

“Calm down, mom. Have you been worried all this time? Don’t worry, I will work harder in the future.”

“As long as you’re healthy, I don’t have any worries……. How did you earn it? Yes? You really are not doing something bad, are you?”

“Absolutely. I was able to earn money using the machine Kijung told you to install.”

“With that machine? Right, Kijung told me that you can make money off of that……. It’s quite expensive.”

Leeha’s mother came to her senses and wiped her tears.

“Just wait. I will work hard to save money for the surgery. You will see me walking again soon.”

“Yes…… If that’s the case, your mother won’t have any regrets.”

“What do you mean! Mom will also be going to travel abroad a lot, and you also have to enjoy it. Please wait a little longer.”

“Don’t be greedy. You only have to think of your body.”

Even though Leeha was still sitting in the wheelchair, people will change their mood according to their determination.

Leeha’s mother felt proud of her son’s change in attitude.

“Oh……. Auntie? Hyung?”

And another familiar voice came from the front door.

“K-Kijung!”

“I think I came at a very awkward …… may I come in?”

“Come in, come in. Look at me, I need to prepare the food. Kijung, you brought something too?”

“Yes, I bought this meat for us to eat… auntie, you bought a lot too.”

Kijung was also holding two bags that about to burst open.

“You’re here now.”

“You look good? Did something good happen?”

“Aren’t you looking good as well!”

“Haha, for a person who got his head cut off, right? After all, you’re the only one who cares about me. Did you know that none of my guild members called me?”

Kijung and were organizing their blood was thicker than water.

(To be continued…)

TL Notes: Nine in Korean is Gu, so Leeha’s mom is saying Gu.. Gu.. Gu. Hence the joke that he was not imitating a pigeon.
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The smoke of meat wafted through the room, but no one cared. There were loads of delicious beef so the smell could be endured.

“Woah, so delicious. The meat is really good, auntie.”

“Eat a lot, Kijung. Theres more meat. Why did you buy so much?”

“Hehe, it’s been a while since I’ve come here, how could I come empty-handed? But I didn’t know you’d buy so much.”

“Thanks to you, I could eat well. My son, eat. Eat this.”

“I… I’m full. It seems we have eaten more than two pounds of beef now.”

To fill one’s stomach with only Korean beef, what kind of luxury was this?

Leeha leaned on his wheelchair and pounded his stomach.

“But how were you able to make so much money? You too, Kijung?”

“Ah…It’s not as much as Leeha hyung-nim but I earn money from time to time. Mom would have beaten me to death if I did not give her any money.”

“Mija’s personality is still the same?. No wonder Kijung doesn’t look sad, even though she always says that she’s worried that you were not studying……“

“Haha, did mom tell you that auntie? She’s saying all sorts of things”

Leeha laughed as he listened to Kijung and his mother’s conversation.

He died once, but he was a Korean semi-rank. At level 197, there was no way he wouldn’t be able to earn more than Leeha.

Even if high-end equipment items were only available from boss-level monsters, he should still be able to make quite a bit of money. Kijung was being humble in front of Leeha.

After tidying up, Leeha called Kijung.

“Kijung.”


“Ah…… I can’t eat anymore. I feel like I would vomit if I eat even one more piece.”

“No, it’s not about eating. Haha, by any chance, anything about the Guild?”

The question he had after looking into the lunchbox quest.

There was hardly any about the Guild in the internet community.

He didn’t invite Kijung just for that, but since he had already met the talented tanker, it would be a pity to just let him go.

“ Guild? Is it time for hyung to use it already?”

“No, it’s not something I want to use yet… I was just curious. What is it?”

“Amazing. It costs some money.”

Kijung patted his stomach and sat down.

“Why do old games have guidebooks? CD game.”

“…”

“You can think of it like that.”

“What?”

What did he mean? Is it a guidebook?

“It varies slightly depending on the level of intimacy with the Intelligence Guild or something like that…… You can think of it as being able to get almost all of the information you want.”

“Almost ? They know almost all of the information that you want?”

“Isn’t it in the game anyway? Then the Middle Earth NPCs will of course know. That’s a good thing, you’re familiar with programs like that.”

“Wow…… that means. Doesn’t that mean that the Guild is like an administrator mode? Or a cheat key?”

Leeha could not hide his reaction to how absurd it was.

“That’s why it is run by NPCs. That’s how Middle Earth sucks money. They give you , and they get a lot of money.”


“Ah, right. They can’t tell anything for free.”

“Right. That’s Middle Earth for you.”

It’s the epitome of unkindness. Quests are also given through small hints rather than direct instructions, and there was no way to simply unravel the information with a guidebook.

“When I was trying to complete a mercenary quest in the past, I went to get information, but it costs 30 gold. It’s so ridiculous……. No matter how good the information is, who would pay 3 million won? I just left.”

“Huh? 30 gold? Isn’t it 3 gold?”

“Yes, 30 gold. So the Guild is sometimes used by guilds or…. Rich people use it to play the game comfortably. it’s expensive, but I don’t know because I never actually used it. I heard that Hyein hyung used it once.”

I don’t think detective agencies cost 3 million won in real life. I can’t believe the fee for using the Intelligence Guild is so high!

Kijung continued while looking at the surprised Leeha.

“That’s how good the information they give you is. You won’t be able to find those things on the internet…… Well, I have heard it’s very useful. Hyein hyung and Sasuke hyung did the same. Even the famous thieves guild or mercenary guild had no choice to concede Guild.”

“That’s really awesome……

A guild run and managed by NPCs Leeha had been researching from time to time and knew it.

Bank Guild, mercenary Guild, warp Guild, thieves Guild, Guild.

It was said that there are always five guild offices in a city with large size, located at places with floating population or key locations.

“Is there an Guild in Aelstock?”

“No. The capital is directly managed by the Royal Palace. Because they could not let such a scary organization exist. What if dangerous people ask about how to assassinate the king in the Guild?”

“Can they about that too?”

“The layout of the Royal Palace…… Don’t you think something like that would be enough? Wouldn’t 500 gold be enough? Haha.”

Kijung giggled, but Leeha couldn’t help but laugh.

‘Right. That’s for sure. Madame Chu…… Is trying to create an Information guild.’

Those hints were vaguely hinted to him. Leeha tried to recall the nuances buried at each and every word that was said to him.


A guidebook for the game? Can I get ?

Then…… if Leeha completed the quest…?

‘I would be great if it’s free, but even if I can get it at a discounted price it would still be good…’

He put the value of the lunchbox and the value of the Guild a scale. Is the Guild worth more than 100 million won in lump cash?

That answer came easily.

“Kijung. I will complete the lunchbox quest.”

“Lunchbox? What about the lunchbox……“

Kijung tilted head for a moment.

“Ah, maybe? What! Ah!!! Whoah!! You’re going to complete it? That lunchbox?”

“Yes.”

“That–! Ah, my stomach.”

Kijung jumped up from his seat and held his stomach.

Kijung couldn’t even scream because of Leeha’s mother, but Leeha could understand what Kijung was trying to say.

Kijung sat back down and pointed at Leeha.

“Ah, really. Did you know, I almost cursed at you? What are you talking about all of a sudden, why will you complete it? Didn’t you tell me how much it would be if you sold it?”

“Yeah, I know. Did you think I said it without thinking?”

“No, of course, I know you have thought about it……”

Kijung sighed and looked at Leeha’s expression.

There has been a time like this. He suddenly exuded a heavy atmosphere, even though they were just playful a moment ago.

That was the reason why Kijung liked Leeha.

“I know what you’re thinking, Kijung. Are you worried about my mother?”

“Yes……. Anyhow…… You also have an auntie……

If you sell the lunchbox, you are guaranteed to get 100 million won. Selling it alone would have been enough to cover a few year’s worth of living expenses. It’s not like Leeha didn’t think about it either.

“I think I can get more than that.”

“Worth more?”

Leeha explained to Kijung.

He probed Madame Chu to find out what the rewards of the lunchbox quest were. How he went into her house and talked about this and that.

And the fact the ‘Holy Grill’ branch in the capital will be the cover office of the Guild’. Kijung’s jaw dropped.

“Really?”

“It is highly likely. Anyway, I met her in person. What do you think Middle Earth master?

Isn’t there a possibility that this game could do that?”

“Whoah…… whoah……”

Kijung organized his thoughts for a long time.

It was a dizzying fact for Leeha as well, it was understandable for Kijung to have such a reaction. Middle Earth Master knew the value of information better.

“What?”

“Yeah, I think it is possible. I wish I heard your conversation with her personally, but if that was what hyung felt, then it should be right. Wow, Guild in the capital… What did the reward say?”

“That…… Come to think of it, the reward written on the quest window was the invitation to its opening ceremony.”

“Then that’s a trap.”

Kijung quickly answered.

“Huh?”

“That’s a trap. The use of the Intelligence Guild in the capital! If that was what was written, then everyone would have tried to complete it. Right, I was actually suspicious when I first heard it from hyung. It is such a great item…… Why would they make it tradeable when it is clearly a quest item? Why would they make it possible to eat? It is strange if you think about it.”

Kijung and Leeha’s eyes met.

They had the same thought.

“In other words, it was a quest that was extremely difficult.”

“The invitation to the opening ceremony is just a trap, and it would shake the hearts of naive players.

It means that it was a much more difficult quest than simply fighting a strong enemy. In the end, it also meant that there was a high probability that it would not end with just an invitation to the opening ceremony.

“It could be said that it had something to do with the Guild. Then you have to complete it, right?”

“Yes. That’s what I thought.”

The money made from selling the Kobold Eonwoldo was “nothing” compared to that. What if he pioneered a way to continuously obtain similar items through the Guild?

It wasn’t just that. No one else knew the existence of the new store in the capital and the Guild.

‘My choices will affect Middle Earth.’

And it was for his own advantage It was always important to be one step ahead of others.

Kijung only went home after they talked until late at night, and after that, Leeha connected to Middle Earth.

(To be continued…)
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A day of game time has passed. As soon as Leeha connected, he headed to Madame Chu’s house. Knock, knock, knock.

He knocked at the door with a deep breath. After a while, a woman in a familiar outfit appeared.

“Oh my, a few days ago The errand boy?”

Looking at the woman’s surprised expression, Leeha looked through his bag.

“Sorry for deceiving you, madame Ju. My name is Ha Leeha, a musketeer that brought the lunchbox on Madame Lu’s request.”

『Holy Grill Capital Branch Opening』

Description: Deliver the lunchbox and a letter to Madam Ju in Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom, within a month (9 days).

“I knew this would happen.”

“Come again?”

“Haha…… interesting. You really are… interesting.”

Madam Ju smiled as he checked the lunchbox Leeha had given her.

“I am… interesting?”

What is she talking about?

Leeha, who had expected some of the reactions Madame Ju might show, was rather surprised.

‘That is……. What happened?’ He did not get the reaction he expected at all.

“Aren’t you coming in?”

“Ah, yes. I will go in.”

He entered Madame Ju’s house. What was going on?


“Coffee? Alcohol? Tea?”

“Oh… Even the lunchbox, you offer anything?”

One could not proceed with the quest without taking the initiative on the conversation.

Leeha wanted to take that initiative by taking a risk!

“Haha, do you want anything else? For example…… information?”

That attempt was shattered in one sentence.

“What…… do you mean?”

“Pretending to be clueless. After all, didn’t you deliver the lunchbox because you knew what Lu and I were going to do? So, didn’t you come here thinking about what additional rewards you would get-?”

“It’s a bit embarrassing to say it out loud…… should it be like that?”

“Haha. No. But it’s not like you came here without knowing”

“Well, I don’t know what you mean. Haha.”

Leeha leaned against the chair.

Was she really an NPC?

It was as if Madame Ju completely read Leeha’s thoughts and intentions.

“There’s no way you don’t know. Unni said that no one would bring the lunchbox without knowing.”

“Yes? Madame Lu?”

“Yes. Because Lu-unni already knew that most people wouldn’t bring the lunchbox. If someone brought the lunchbox…… it would be one of two types of people.”

“What kind of people are those?”

“A complete idiot with no greed or…”

Gulp, madame Ju took a sip of coffee.


She moved slowly, and Madame Ju’s outfit had a thin slip, but Leeha did not see any weapon……. Leeha felt a strange eerie feeling.

“Someone who knows our plan and wants to use it. Interesting, right? People who do things half-heartedly wouldn’t come this far.”

“I see.”

Opportunity makes the thief.

A quest that could only be completed by a person who was stupid enough not to feel greed when looking at the lunchbox with great value, or a person that would pursue profits beyond that greed.

‘There was no thing as “bringing the lunchbox in good faith”‘.

It was an answer that only judges people based on profit and loss, but it was not a bad thing.

‘But…… this feeling…… what is this chilling sensation? Right now, Leeha was in the residential area in the middle of the capital.

However, every time he saw Madame Ju smile, it felt like he was being thrown into a battlefield filled with blood.

“And she added one more thing.”

“What?”

Leeha’s body gradually tensed up. It was by no means a favorable atmosphere. Was there something wrong? Madam Ju didn’t answer.

When he noticed that her hand was raised, Leeha reacted before he could think.

“Whoever brought the lunchbox-!”

As soon as Madame Ju snapped her fingers, Leeha moved.

“Kill them.”

Clang-!

A flying object smashed the window and crashed into the wall.

“Oh? You avoided it?”

“What are you doing! Madame!”


However, he received no answer. However, the door opened roughly, and people in black came in.

“Damn it!”

Leeha quickly turned his gun and fired his musket at the black-clothed man that ran towards him.

Baaang—-!

“Everyone, don’t move!”

A fortune among misfortune! Leeha’s musket was loaded before entering the Royal Palace.

With a loud bang, the intruder in black clothes fell down.

‘Delicate Hand Movement!’

Leeha reloaded as soon as he finished firing, but the men in black clothes and masks showed no signs of stopping

‘There are four intruders, I can’t fight inside the house. There are three intruders left.

Reloading took a lot of time, additionally, they were too close.

Leeha ground his teeth. If this continues….

“The Sacred Knights will come after hearing the gunshots! People around must have heard the gunshots as well! If you were to continue, the Sacred Knights will take you away!”

Flicker, the movements of the black-clothed men stopped.

Would it work? However, after a few seconds, the black-clothed men moved again.

But those few seconds mattered.

Because Leeha finished reloading at that time.

However, three of them coming. Will he be able to shoot all of them?

‘No.’

Leeha turned his gun without hesitation.

The black-clothed men were not important. There was only one thing Leeha needed to do in order to survive here.

“Get those bastards to leave right now, madame Ju. If you don’t want to get a hole in your head, and it doesn’t matter whether you’re a man or a woman.”

Shudder.

Leeha aimed his musket at Madame Ju’s head.

“You know that’s too harsh a woman, right?”

“Don’t be ridiculous, send them away, quickly. I tak that lunchbox back too. And the Sacred Knights-”

“Right. Will come. But didn’t you think that the Sacred Knights would have been bribed?”

“Huh?”

“Those who work in the capital always have countermeasures. However…… the decision to take back the lunchbox was quite novel. The quick response was good.”

What is this? What is she saying? Leeha looked around.

What else is she hiding? What did she believe in to be so confident?

“If it was my sister, she would have given you a perfect score, but your weakness was exposed in melee fights… Well, should I say that it’s good enough? First of all, I will give you a passing grade Ha Leeha-ssi. 89 points? Haha.”

Snap-!

When Madame Ju snapped her finger, the black-clothed men disappeared like smoke.

“What are you doing?”

Is it like stealth? Looking back at it, it was weird. The one that Leeha shot did not have any corpses. Summons?

“Did you not expect the test? Should I deduct 5 points?”

Was this all a test? Was she testing Leeha right now?

“Don’t move!”

Even when Leeha pushed the musket in, madame Ju took a sip of coffee without any hesitation.

“The test is over, Ha Leeha-ssi. Please back.”

Madame Ju’s voice was calm.

She had an attitude like a person who believes she had everything under control.

Was it really the end? Could he just say yes and shake hands with Madame Ju? With the master of the new Guild?

‘No…… he could not. Now I know a little more about Middle Earth.’

Leeha understood it.

What kind of NPCs are Madame Lu and Ju. Test…… right, if they are going to be the heads of the Guild, they should be this much…

However, after one attack, what would be the next?

Leeha’s head was clear.

“Don’t fuck with me. Who said it was over?”

Leeha pulled the trigger.

When a click was heard, madame Ju’s actions finally stopped.

“What are you doing? I told you the test is over, right?”

“Bullshit. It was a test for you, but it was life-threatening to me. Did you think that you would convince me with the word ‘test’, after you did such a thing?”

“R-right, but the one I summoned doesn’t really do any damage-”

“Shut up. Did you think I would believe what you are saying now? How did you bribe the Sacred Knights? Did you think that if you paid a bribe they would just let it slide?”

Leeha growled lowly.

For the first time, madam Ju’s voice began to waver.

“And one more thing. Did you think that you are the only one with connections? I am also acquainted with the Sacred Knights. I will take this lunchbox and you directly to the Sacred Knights. I’ll report it and make sure it’s thoroughly investigated.”

Leeha remembered Syndergaard.

He believed in him no matter what happened in the Royal Palace.

He even called him a comrade and close friend. After completing the Hijuit-Ka Quest, intimacy has risen sharply, so Leeha was sure that Syndergaard would believe him.

“H-Hold on!”

“Do you have anything to say?”

Leeha pressed the musket on Madame Ju’s head.

“It really was just a simple test. The two types of humans we talked about earlier! Isn’t this the only way to determine what kind of person the one who brought the lunchbox is?”

“Put your hands behind your head. If you make one wrong move, I will blow your head off.”

Leeha took three steps back and aimed at Madame Ju.

Leeha used the suppression method used by Browless .

“D-don’t shoot! It really was a test! It was to see how you cope in a crisis, whether you were an idiot or a person with brains that we could ! Of course, even if you failed the test, your life would have been safe-”

“Shh. Is that all you have to say? You tested me to check if I was fit to cooperate with you. Then how should I test you?”

“Y-yes?”

“If are “information” people, tell me something that I am curious about. If it’s a vague answer, I’ll just pull the trigger.”

The voice of someone who has the initiative should always be calm. Like Leeha now.

Madame Ju remained silent for a moment and raised her arms.

“Hmm……. I haven’t gotten all the information about you yet, but I heard from Lu-unni. And the level of equipment you use…… If you want information about something, your priority would be to know where you could improve your skills in a short amount of time, right?.

‘As expected… NPCs like Madame Ju have the ability to understand the users’ characters. They have a much higher authority than normal NPCs.’

In the case of the weapon shop owner, he recommended weapons after looking at Leeha’s level and stats.

If so, what about the NPC that would lead the Intelligence Guild? No matter how bad she was, she should be able to understand users much better than the store owners.

“Okay, so? Is there such a place?”

“The place where people with similar to Leeha-ssi ‘Las Canyon’.”

Also known as the Goblin’s Gorge. It is a place where outlanders go for subjugation because dozens or even hundreds of goblins live in villages under that canyon.”

“Okay, so?”

“So?”

“I already know that.”

It was information that Leeha already knew. A place where users at approximately level 50 to 65 go hunting. Goblins after kobold.

However, Leeha was not asking for a simple hunting ground.

(To be continued…)
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“Didn’t I say it directly? ‘A good place where I can improve myself in a short time’? When are you going to tell me something that other outlanders do not know?”

“No, I’m not done yet. There is a protruding area in the middle of the Goblin’s Gorge surrounded by cliffs. It’s a place one doesn’t go to unless they are going to gather herbs. Ha Leeha-ssi if it’s with your skill…… you should be able to catch goblins there. Without any risk.”

A camping location? Leeha’s eyebrows knit.

‘Could it be a place where I could safely kill monsters without them being able to hit me?’

Of course, it might be possible for a musket’s range, but based on Madame Ju’s explanation, it seemed that it could be a place where monsters won’t be able to go at all. Leeha asked for the details.

“Are the goblins unable to get there?”

“Y-yes. Because it isn’t possible.”

“Isn’t possible? Then how could I get there?”

“I will show you the way to get there. Because……. It’s our job.”

It was the job of the Intelligence Guild. In other words, madame Ju gave Leeha a ‘taste’ of what the Intelligence Guild does.

Laughter almost came out of Leeha.

‘Hahaha…… Bingo!’

Leeha did not immediately let his guard down.

He did not even show his joy. One could not easily get distracted in front of someone who does weird things and tests people out of nowhere.

Leeha focused on his five senses.

Will there be something else waiting outside the house? Who would want to get beaten every time? When Leeha felt that there was no longer a threat, madame Ju spoke again.

“Was that enough?”

He concentrated his eyes, ears, and even nose, but he did not feel any trace of threat.


Leeha withdrew his musket.

“Haha! Madame Ju kept on surprising me, so I had no choice but to do it like this. Are you surprised? Are you hurt anywhere?”

“H-huh?”

“Aah, really……. I’m sorry. Haha. I am indebted to Madam Lu, how could I hurt her sister? Agh! I was really surprised! Haha. You thought it was real, right? My acting was pretty good, wasn’t it?”

Leeha smiled slyly and picked up the coffee

“Phew, hey. You are, after all, the younger sister of the Madame of Holy Grill. This coffee’s still delicious even though it’s cold? Haha

“W-what a sudden……“

“Hey, what are you talking about? I also brought the lunchbox. We were rude to each other before, so let’s start in the beginning. You said that you tested me to see if we could join hands, right? Now that the test is over, what should we do?”

Leeha put down his coffee and grabbed Madame Ju’s hand.

“We have to join hands! Don’t we? What’s my score?”

It might have been a reaction that the NPC wasn’t prepared for.

Leeha completely overwhelmed Madame Ju.

Madame Ju had a bewildered for a moment, but when Leeha asked for the score, she immediately returned to a cool bewitching figure.

“Hahahaha. I see. I only received a message from my sister and made a hasty decision. He is fun and capable…… but he seems a bit weak.”

“Huh? Madame Lu said that about me?”

Leeha felt .

It was unfair for an NPC to evaluate one’s personality, but even the evaluation was shallow. Was it somewhat lax?

“I have a line to that.

‘

He is a person that has an unexpectedly cool head that beyond… surprising. It wasn’t in my criteria for scoring. ”I completely lost, Ha Leeha-ssi.”


Madame Ju smiled brightly.

“I lost.”

Madame Ju said, with a refreshing smile It was not an expression of sadness or annoyance.

“I will give you 200 points.”

“Heuk. As expected, you have insight. Thank you, madame Ju. I wish you all the best in the future.”

“As expected, you really are an interesting person, Ha Leeha-ssi. Good luck.”

Leeha held hands with Madame Ju. In more ways than one.

『Quest Completed: Opening of Holy Grill Capital Branch.』 『You leveled up.』

What should he do next? Of course. He needed to check the value of the information.

“Oh, didn’t she say that it’s a place where ‘Herbalists’ go? Goblin’s Gorge.”

As always, Koreans need money.

“Phew……. Should I stop now.”

Leeha got up from the shooting position and shook off the dust. The heated barrel of the Needle Gun, lightly hanging from his back, warmed Leeha’s back.

“Uh, it’s so bright. He had been doing this for two days……

If Leeha’s memory was correct, he had watched the sunrise twice. He didn’t move around and just stayed in place.

He did not groan or make a noise when he moved his waist, but he felt that his body was a bit stiff.

After obtaining information from Madame Ju, he made the protrusion on the cliff at the Goblin’s Goblin as a camping site.

After listening to Madame Ju’s description, it was still difficult to find the way even with a map. I must have wandered for hours.

‘Still, it was worth it.’

Because of the kind of spot it was. It was information that Madame Ju gave with her life as collateral. Leeha opened his bag and checked the quantity of gunpowder and ammunition he had.


‘Around 500 sets left.’

He bought 2000 sets, whopping 1 gold.

The amount was so large that he was worried that his bag would burst because it was so full.

‘Well, I should use that much.’ Leeha smiled.

『Achievement: Goblin Vigilance Alert(F+)』

Congratulations! You have successfully hunted 500 goblins! Your name is beginning to spread in the goblin community. Be careful, those bastards know how to harass humans well.

Reward: Strength +1,

Agility +1,

Intelligence +1,

Defense against goblins +15%

『Goblin Nose Collector(E+)』

Congratulations! You have successfully hunted 1000 goblins! In goblin society, rumors began to circulate that you were a human that goblin’s nose. Always beware of vengeful goblins!

Reward: Strength +2,

Agility +2,

+2

‘I caught so many that I got tired of it.’

The goblins did not know where or how they died, and who the next victim was. It was natural that they were not able to climb the cliff and that most of them could not even detect Leeha.

In goblin society, it spread as ‘Fear of the unknown ‘or ‘the legend that rips goblin’s ‘. Of course, Leeha did not know about that fact.

‘It was disappointing that there was no achievement after killing 1500 goblins. Haha. If I kill more, they might go extinct.’

He literally shot the musket ‘without resting’. The non-stop shooting meant that the repetitive actions related to agility have been for a long time. Thanks to that, his agility also increased by 2.

‘4 hours for the first +1, and 16 hours for the second +1……. Now, to get 1 more, I would need to shoot for 64 hours straight.’

That would be unreasonable. Unless one is camping in one place, it was almost impossible to raise one’s stats with ‘repeated actions’ in the first place.

‘And even if one could find a camping spot, hunting would only be possible if one had the funds to support it.’

And if it was a place that was not normally reached by monsters, it will also be a place where the user won’t be able to reach the monster.

In other words, there was a fatal disadvantage that could not be removed even if one succeeded in hunting.

And the disadvantage of long-distance camping is that one could not get back the money they spent.

‘Hahaha……. Of course, there’s always an exception.’

Leeha’s bag was full despite his use of large amount of gunpowder.

The scent that came out after opening the bag was not of gunpowder, but of medicinal herbs that filled the bag.

It would be good to sell it to the general store or drugstore, and if he could find alchemist users that made potions, he could even sell it at the price of gunpowder.

‘ Guild……. It’s like this, right? Haha.’

In a sense, it can be considered as an additional reward for the lunchbox quest. And Leeha did not intend to end his ‘additional reward’ in one go.

“Now, it’s time to go.”

Leeha smiled and started going down the gorge.

The return scroll was worth 50 silver.

‘I can live well if I save that kind of money! ’

“Director, are you there! It’s me Ha Leeha”

“Welcome, Ha Leeha-kun.”

“Oh.”

Leeha’s eyes were dazzled and raised his arms for a moment.

All the blinds in the director’s room, which was always dark, had been lifted.

“I’m glad you came quickly.”

“Did something happen?”

“No, nothing happened. I was worried that you wouldn’t come because you saw me flustered.”

“Haha. Director can even joke around.”

Browless smiled at Leeha’s remark.

3 days ago, it looked like he had lost everything in the world.

Leeha looked at Browless, had a different mood, for a while.

However, in terms of ‘what had changed’, it wasn’t only Browless. The director of the Musket Academy looked at Leeha carefully.

“It seems your atmosphere changed.”

“Is that so?”

“What did you do in 3 days?”

“Well…… haha, I played with some goblins.”

Leeha smiled.

“Ho. Goblins.”

Browless also notice Leeha’s growth. It would be easy for an NPC that is a Director of the Academy to estimate a user’s level.

However, it won’t be easy for an NPC to grow in such a period of time.

‘Well, isn’t that surprising? Character window.’

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 48 (52%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 22

HP： 2,000 / MP： 460

Stats: Strength 55(+40),

Agility 448(+144)

58(+43)

Constitution 81 (+33), 정신력 27(+17)

Remaining stat points: 0

When he completed the Royal Archives quest, Leeha was only level 36.

As a result of 48 hours of camping in the Goblin Canyon where users around level 50 to level 60 hunt, his level increased by 12.

He leveled up at a speed that couldn’t even be dreamed of with normal party play, so it really was surprising. All stats, of course, invested into agility.

“Then, we can proceed faster.”

“What do you mean fast?”

“What do you think we need to do Isn’t it obvious?”

『The agony of the last of the Three Musketeers has been completed.』

A notification window momentarily appeared in front of Leeha.

“I have to raise you. As a member of the next generation of the Three Musketeers.”

『Accuracy Improvement Training-1: What you can’t see from afar.』

Description: ‘The next generation of the Three Musketeers must be completed as soon as possible. Before it’s too late, he had to go after them.’

Browless decided to pursue his treacherous companions. However, the next generation of the Three Musketeers had yet to bloom. In order to protect you, Browless who decided to pursue his companions had decided to give you various growth tests.

Description: Kill the Field Boss – Brass Golem (0 / 1)

Reward: Skill- Eagle’s Eye, Quest: Miss Elizabeth’s Will(Legacy)

Condition for failure: Exceed the deadline, death, party play

Penalty for failure: 『Accuracy Improvement Training』 will disappear, 『Disappearing Legends』 will be canceled, 『Browless’ Expectations』 will be canceled, Quest route will reset.

Leeha only had one thought after reading the quest quickly

‘To start again.’

(To be continued…)
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Leeha quickly scanned the quest window.

What did the quest mean when it said that the next generation of the Three Musketeers must be completed?

‘I noticed it to some extent, but now I am sure.’

From the moment he passed the first academy test, Leeha had a vague sense of it.

Was it until he hunted Hijuit-Ka, or was it when he confirmed the betrayal of the two of the Three Musketeers that he was tested for his abilities?

‘Is there really nothing that this game is clumsy at?’

It was also clear that it was definitely going in one direction. The problem was the name that came out of the reward, miss Elizabeth.

‘But why is it Miss Elizabeth.’

There was Brown, who left together with Miss Elizabeth, and Browless who was in front of Leeha.

Nevertheless, what does the quest reward “Miss Elizabeth’s Will” mean?

Leeha thought about it for a while, but in the end, the information he could get from the content of the quest was limited.

‘I will find out soon. Because there are no useless scenarios.’

Middle Earth always wanted its users to pioneer. There was no choice but to face it.

“Is it a golem this time?”

“Yes. Have you ever caught one?”

“Not yet.”

Leeha gently shook his head.


It was not because there was no information about the golem.

It was in the North-West of the capital. Golems appear in the Rock Mountains, one of the Tributaries of the Sentinel Mountain Range.

‘It was also on Fernand’s map.’

The level of the Stone Golem is between 60 to 70.

“I see. Then it will be a lot of fun. Much more than Hijuit-Ka.”

“Cough…… It doesn’t look like it would be fun at all……“

“Then you wouldn’t do it?”

Browless immediately answered the grumbling Leeha.

Obviously, his tone was the same as before. A little harsh and cold voice.

“That’s not possible, director-nim.”

But with a smile that he had never shown before. His smile the morning sun by the window was the expression of a person who completely believed in Leeha.

Leeha also looked at Browless and smiled. And clicked the accept button.

“That’s how you are.”

“What is a Brass Golem? Is that the guy from the Rock Mountain?”

“At Tenero, the peak of Rock Mountain. There is a copper mine there.”

“Tenero, copper mine. okay.”

If there was a peak with a name, it should appear on the map.

Leeha did his best to pick up all the information that Browless gave.

But Browless did not say anymore.

Leeha, who was looking at Browless with a blank face, tilted his head.


“That…… Is that all?”

“You want more? Catch it within 15 days and bring it back.”

Tring-!

Once again, the quest window appeared.

『Accuracy Improvement Training-1: What you can’t see from afar』

Description: ‘The next generation of the Three Musketeers must be completed as soon as possible. Before it’s too late, he had to go after them.’

Browless decided to pursue his treacherous companions. However, the next generation of the Three Musketeers has yet to bloom. In order to protect you, Browless who decided to pursue his companions has decided to give you various growth tests.

Description: Defeat the Field Boss: Brass Golem within 15 days (0 / 1)

Reward: Eagle’s Eye, Quest: Miss Elizabeth’s Will (Legacy)

Condition for Failure: Exceeding the time limit, death, Party Play

Penalty for failure: 『 Accuracy Improvement Training 』 will disappear, 『 Disappeared Legends 』 will be canceled, 『 Browless Expectations』 will be canceled, quest route will be reset.

‘I’m going crazy. Are all other professions like this?’

I’ll have to check someday when I get the chance. Why are there such unkind NPCs….

It would be nice if there was something special for their toughness, but so far, there was nothing good about it except for the unreasonable difficulties of quests.

‘But first, I have to answer.’

“I understand.”

Leeha said goodbye to Browless and left the Academy. All that came out was a sigh.

Leeha knew this from the first time he saw those stubborn lips, but isn’t it enough for Browless to be kinder now? At least Browless could have told Leeha how to catch it.

Dorado.

‘Damn it! He really won’t teach anything?’


As expected, Middle Earth is Middle Earth. Leeha blamed himself for being lax after hearing about the goblin camping site from Madame Ju and having a safe leveling blast.

“I have no choice but to work harder from now on. Well then……“

Leeha took out his map.

The name Tenero was indeed written on the rock mountain.

‘I don’t think there would be a large crowd .’

I need information……

Leeha once again opened the quest window and stared intently.

As expected, he couldn’t find an answer. He would have liked to go to the Holy Grill and ask them to give him information, but he couldn’t.

‘Why the hell are they opening so late. It won’t time like in reality.’

Even though Leeha finished the quest to deliver the lunchbox, the opening of Holy Grill was more than a month away.

He couldn’t go to Madam Ju’s house nor the construction site.

In the end, it was a quest that Leeha needed to complete by himself.

As Browless said, Leeha realized again what it meant to be a musketeer.

“I should restock before leaving.”

He would need to sell the herbs and buy gunpowder and ammunition. To use the warp gate, he would need to spend another few golds.

And if he failed, he would need to repeat again.

Of course, Middle Earth’s money. equivalent to cash, would flow out.

‘Of course, he couldn’t do that! , I need to finish it in one try. I will finish it in one try and come back.’

Leeha only left, after purchasing gunpowder and ammunition and disposing of the herbs he gathered which resulted in his Bargaining skill to reach level 5.

His destination was the Rock Mountain, a tributary in the northwestern part of the Sentinel Mountain Range.

“Thank you, please use our services again.”

“Uh……. Of course, you would be grateful.”

As he came out of the 70 silver warp gate, Leeha grumbled lightly.

One could buy crystal balls and remember the coordinates, and if one used a scroll, they would be able to move to that place quickly.

‘What kind of 5-slot crystal ball costs 10 gold?’

More importantly, it was not possible with the crystal ball alone.

The crystal ball was an item that literally only remembers the coordinate position. One needs to buy a movement scroll, which costs 50 silver per sheet.

Considering the cost of the crystal ball, Leeha had no choice but to use the warp gate.

If he didn’t have any money, he would have walked.

‘It would have taken a day’.

Even if he ran all the way, would have taken a day.

Anyway, he still had spare money to spend 70 silver.

Recalling the day he had no Leeha forced himself to have a positive mind.

He soon arrived at a small village at the foot of Rock Mountain.

“ going to the Stone Golem〜! We are looking for close-ranged warriors~ we only accept blunt weapon users!”

“Looking for ice or flame mages to catch -Trap! Or Lightning mage 〈3『3!”

The village was small, but there were quite a few users.

The monsters that appear in the Rock Mountains are the Stone Golems and the man-eating plant, -Trap.

‘As seen on the internet.’

The Stone Golem is the number 1 monster that ranged damage dealers avoid because of its overwhelming defense. Unless it was a strong bow that could pierce rocks, it was difficult to even scratch the monster.

And the -Trap is the monster that warriors wanted to avoid the most.

It was a plant that the Rock Mountain that was all gray.

It approaches users while invisible and grab them while they are looking away. Literally ‘grab’ them. So that the victims won’t be able to escape.

It was difficult to wield one’s weapon due to the sticky mucus that it spews from its leaves, stems, and even petals.

‘It means that monsters that are always opposite to each other, live together.’

It was one of the reasons why there were not many hunting grounds or villages favored by warriors or mages.

Almost all of Middle Earth’s hunting have monsters that each profession had a hard time dealing with.

Of course, there was no place for a musketeer in such a complex hunting ground.

Ever since he started playing Middle Earth, Leeha hadn’t seen musketeers at all.

••••••

‘If one looked at probability, it was not an exaggeration to say that I am the only musketeer in Middle Earth.’

If one thought about it, it was really unfortunate.

The fact that there were only a few musketeers meant that it really was a trash job.

But now? It was quite disappointing. Still, wasn’t it quite fun?

‘If he had a different job, he wouldn’t have taken this route.’

Anyone could see that it was not a normal quest.

One could tell just by looking at the mention of the next generation of the Three Musketeers. It was clear that it was a quest that was activated only for the ‘first three people’ who had passed Browless’s test.

‘In other words, it was a first come first serve basis.’

What if it was a different job with a lot of users?

Leeha would have been playing the game as smoothly as other users without being able to display their abilities properly.

Even if one sometimes achieved remarkable results, one couldn’t even dream of being Hall of Fame.

Leeha suddenly felt grateful to his mother.

She pulled the cord, and he was forced to become a musketeer…… he never thought that it would turn out like this.

“It was a blessing in disguise.”

Leeha went to the Rock Mountain, with users behind him looking for a party.

Some users at Leeha, to look for a party. 30 minutes after leaving the village, what he saw in front of him was all gray.

“There were more monsters than one would think.”

There were neither trees nor weeds.

Stones, rocks, rocks, stones.

Leeha could see the users swinging and wriggling,

but he couldn’t see what they were fighting.

Leeha watched them for a while, but to no avail.

‘It should be a breeze in some way.’

They were either swinging their Great Hammer, morning Star, or Mace.

The Stone Golem, which was obviously slow, counterattacked once or twice, but it didn’t seem that it could deliver effective strikes. On the other hand, the temperament of the warriors seem to be quite strong.

“Striking!”

Leeha thought that yellow light flashed, but gold dust spread from the heads of the four people.

‘Oh…… priest? Blessi-.’

He thought it was a blessing.

“Die, die, die!”

“Break it! Grind it! Hahaha!”

“Stone, stone, stone!!!”

With a slightly larger appearance than a giant, the Stone Golem, around 3m in diameter, was broken down helplessly by the reckless attacks of the warrior.

‘They look like bad guys that torment the weak.’

After watching for a while, Leeha moved again.

The Stone Golem’s hunting method was just hitting and breaking, and nothing else seemed to matter.

Slow movement and slow attack.

It seemed to Leeha that it was an easy catch.

‘If I could sit in a comfortable place, it should be worth it.’

(To be continued…)
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Kurururuk—

“Hmm?”

The stones rolled and clumped together.

The sight of a Stone Golem spawning where there were no users caught Leeha’s eyes.

“Okay, first one.”

The last one Leeha would catch was the Brass Golem.

Only the materials were different, but the characteristics of the golems should be the same!

Leeha quickly filled the musket with gunpowder.

It took 42 seconds without using any skills, he knelt and supported his body.

The musket he lifted did not even shake at all.

“50m distance. Wind speed…… Around 6m/s. It is pretty strong. Wind direction…southeast”

Since there were no trees, it was hard to predict the wind’s direction, but it was not hard for Leeha.

Considering the endless dust rising from Rock Mountain and the fluttering robes of the mages he saw while coming here, Leeha roughly predicted that it was between 5m and 7m.

‘I’m glad that I won’t need to shoot from a long distance.’

Kururuk, Kurururu–!

The Stone Golem now has a fully humanoid form. The musket’s muzzle was pointed at the golem’s head.

“Phew……


Between the short interval between inhaling and exhaling. Leeha Click.

Baaang—!

Beyond the white smoke billowing from the muzzle, Leeha caught sight of the bullet lodged deep into the golem’s head.

The Stone Golem’s raised arms stopped.

“Naisu! Will it be a one-shot?”

Leeha smiled and put up his musket.

Lead bullets from modern rifles are not easy to get stuck in a rock. It would be crushed and bounced off as it is.

But now?

“It was possible because the bullet was made of iron. If even a Stone Golem is hit in the head, one-.”

“Huh?”

The Stone Golem swung its arms again.

Its upper body swirled, faced downward and with a thump, its lower body changed direction.

It was like the movement of a tank in a caterpillar track.

“Isn’t it dead?”

Didn’t it go straight to its head?

In an instant, a thought came into Leeha’s mind.

A giant bear he met on the way to the capital. The image of a burning bear approaching, bleeding after being hit with three bullets in the head.

“Damn it! It won’t die in one shot.”

Kurok, kurok!

The Stone Golem golem started moving toward Leeha with a harsh sound of rocks colliding with each other.


It was not fast, but it was intimidating.

Its speed was enough to reduce its distance by 50 meters!

Leeha ran and started reloading, then turned around again after 45 seconds.

His distance from the Stone Golem was 17 meters, it was clearly catching up.

“If you won’t die in one shot, then I will shoot you until you are.”

Pusosok, when another gunshot was heard from the Rock Mountain, one could see that there was stone dust flying from the Stone Golem’s head.

“Two shots.”

However, Leeha did not stop. It was fortunate that the Stone Golem stop for a while when it shot in the head.

As he was confident that the Stone Golem would move again

Leeha widened their distance and finished reloading.

Kururuk…

“I knew it!”

Baaang–.

After the 3rd blow, the Stone Golem’s head was pulverized.

There was nothing left from the 3-meter body.

“Three shots in the head…… this would not be easy.”

Phew-!

Leeha looked around while blowing the smoke from the musket’s barrel.

It would be possible to deal with another one, but the place is also littered with Traps in addition to the Stone Golem.

It was too dangerous to hunt like that.


Thump, thump.

‘Because the Traps can’t be seen properly……. He needed to find a safe hunting spot after all…… Finding such a spot was also a problem, as it was difficult to hit the Stone Golem’s head properly when the wind was so strong-.’

Thump, thump.

Kururuk—.

A sudden ominous sound.

Leeha had discovered that there was no head in the shadow that covered his body.

“I need to leave……“

Kuoooh—!!!

“Waaah!!!!”

There was no need to look back.

Kwaaang—-!

As soon as Leeha escaped, a fist made of rocks hit the place he was standing at.

“Kak!”

Pebble shards bounced in all directions and across Leeha’s body.

Being thrown in the gravel field was a bonus, and he felt a slight pain.

Kururuk, kururuk—!

“Hey, no matter how tough it is, living without a head is a bit harsh, isn’t it?!”

Kurok, kurok!

Then wouldn’t it be too much for rocks to move?

Leeha seemed to argue with the golem somehow.

“Aish! What am I going to do!” Wuoooh!!

The rocks on the golem’s left arm moved and rolled on its body.

The place where the rocks moved was side.

Now, the golem had no arm on one side and two times longer on the other.

It was a design without considering the body’s balance.

However, it intuitively knew how to move its grotesque body.

The golem with an arm two times longer once again swung it.

“Kuoooh!”

Boom! Leeha managed to avoid the boulders by bending his upper body!

Just hearing the rustling sound made his spine cold.

“Is it remodeling its body?”

And it wasn’t just about swinging its modified arm.

The Stone Golem started to swing its arm like a whip.

Kwang, kwang, kwang!

‘This is absurd, a single golem is this strong- keuk!’

Leeha could barely avoid it thanks to the distance, but he could barely avoid hitting the gravel fragments.

He could feel his HP draining every time each stone hit his stomach, chin, or face.

What was more serious was that Leeha had no idea where to attack.

“Damn it!”

Kwaang-

As soon as the arm that the golem struck down touched the floor became gravel.

When he was hit by the stones, Leeha’s vision turned red.

‘I’m already at 50%?’

It was dangerous. He never thought that there would be a splash attack!

‘There’s no time to worry! For now……. Delicate Hand Movement!’

Leeha immediately activated his skill. It was fight or flight.

No, there was only one choice from the very beginning.

How could he catch the Brass Golem without being able to catch a single Stone Golem?

‘21，22, 23-.’

Runaway and Reload. The only consolation for Leeha was that the Stone Golem was slow.

‘-3’

He tapped the butt of the musket to the floor and finished reloading.

Leeha immediately turned around and raised his muzzle. But where should he aim?

‘It no longer has a head. Then? Body? Heart? But what kind of heart would it have when it is made of a bunch of rocks!’

Kurururu-!

As the Stone Golem stomped and ran, Leeha suddenly had a question. Doesn’t it have a heart?

‘No, wait. Then how does it move?’

It was not a living thing. Rocks that should not have been able to move

were able to gather and move.

Then there was only one answer.

‘It has an energy source.’

Leeha thought of the warriors who were catching the golems.

They were people wielding blunt weapons at random.

‘First the arm, then the-.’

Bang!

Leeha pulled the trigger.

The iron bullets flew accurately to the golem’s chest. To be more accurate, it was in its solar plexus.

‘-Chest.’

Pasasat.

Stone dust flew and the golem’s growling stopped.

“No, it’s not dead yet.”

It was like when Leeha blew its head off. If it took a pretty serious blow, the golem would stop for a while.

The Delicate Hand Movement was still active.

While the golem was still

Leeha reloaded and lifted his musket again.

“One more time.”

He exhaled.

It was not just about hitting its solar plexus. What Leeha was aiming for was more perfect, more accurate shooting.

‘Calm Mind.’

The target was close, but Leeha wanted to be more accurate.

The effect of a Calm Mind that has reached level 9 was an increase in accuracy by 23%.

It only lasted 3 seconds,

but it didn’t matter if one was already finished reloading.

Click, Leeha pulled the trigger.

Kwang!

Another iron bullet flew and hit the one that was lodged in the golem’s solar plexus.

Pususok—1

The golem’s body cracked and the stones began to fall.

‘Nice!’

It was possible because their distance was only 20 meters.

In terms of arrows,

It was like shooting the first arrow with a second arrow. Leeha’s magical shooting skills shone.

“Is it dead?”

For now, there was no additional movement that came from the Stone Golem.

Leeha felt his whole body loosen up.

How would he catch the field boss if catching normal golems was like this?

“Phew……. It’s not some kind of talent show- huh?”

Light was emitted through the smoke.

A blue stone that could be seen from the golem’s broken body. Isn’t it the size of a human fist?

Leeha had instinctively known.

‘That’s the energy source!’

Leeha immediately reloaded. The fact that the energy source hasn’t been broken meant that the golem wasn’t dead yet!

But as long as its weakness was revealed, it would be over.’

28, 29, 30. Click-!

When Leeha finished reloading, what appeared in front of him was a golem with its arms and head being restored.

“What?”

Kururuk?

“Ah, what’s this, really. Don’t do that. I see. That was why the warriors were in such a mess.”

Leeha lowered his musket and smiled. No, he laughed out loud without realizing it.

Kung, kung, kung, kung-!

“Why is it being restored, this is such a scam!!!!”

And Leeha ran without looking back.

After seeing the Stone Golem perfectly restored to its original form, Leeha judged that further hunting was meaningless.

And!

“Ahhh!! We’ll see!!!”

Kung, kung, kung!

The golem’s footsteps were slow but steady.

Leeha ran without looking back,

Leeha spat out words that were only said by villains.

(To be continued…)
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After running to the point where green weeds could be seen and the footsteps of the Stone Golem could no longer be heard.

“Haa…… haa……. I’m glad that I have unlimited stamina.”

If he didn’t, he would have died. No, as the golem’s agility was low…Leeha would have caught it even if it was slow.

Leeha stopped and looked at the foot of the Rock Mountain again.

The rocky area, which was lined with pebbles and stones, was terrifying, unlike anything he had ever seen before.

‘The first attempt was a failure. Okay. Great.’

Two skills were on cooldown and one humiliation, but it wasn’t without result.

‘It would be impossible to hunt with the normal method. The golem’s energy core is in its solar plexus, however, there was a possibility of getting restored while reloading.’

Once the energy source is revealed, one should attack it with a force that was enough to destroy it.

Anyway, Leeha’s greatest hurdle right now was its ability to restore.

‘I will have a hard time exposing its energy source. Destroying the exposed energy source would also be a problem.’

Leeha thought about using Bayonet Charge, but he was not confident.

He remembered the sound of rocks that weighed at least a few tons cutting through the air and his body trembled.

Then, Leeha opened the quest window and looked at the quest that Browless gave him.

［Accuracy Improvement Training-1: What you can’t see from afar］

‘As the title says. What you can’t see from afar. A monster that reveals its weakness only when one gets close and destroys its body……‘

It was unlike the case of Hijuit-Ka that one could clear through sniping.


If it was, Leeha would have just wasted his ammunition and gunpowder to shoot its head, arms, and legs.

The Brass Golem should also have restoration ability like the Stone Golem, so it would be meaningless to waste bullets.

‘If I am unlucky, then I get killed.’

Then, he would fail….

Quest failure conditions were death, exceeding the time limit, and party play. It meant that he had to do everything by himself…….

“Hmm. I also need to get information from other people.”

Getting into a party would result in failure, but just watching would not.

Leeha tightened the musket’s shoulder strap.

He needed to obtain information about the Brass Golem as well as how to hunt the Stone Golem.

The first party he saw while climbing up the Rock Mountain.

Leeha observed the party consisting of four warriors and one healer as they were hunting.

‘Their pattern was clearly similar. First, crush both arms. It was a stupid monster that would not be able to fight back once its arms were .’

Of course, if the warriors got hit, it would inflict considerable damage, but anyway, they were warriors.

They would be able to withstand an attack of that level.

‘And then the chest.’

It was the same. They always reorganize before hitting the chest.

The timing to use a buff to increase their attack power or strengthen their weapons was around that time.

“Ora, ora, ora!”

“Uwooh!”

“It will come out soon! Just one hit! Just one shot!”


Kwang, Kwang, Kwang!

It was like demolishing an old building, and the Stone Golem’s core gradually showed, and the party members could be heard shouting

‘One-shot?’

Leeha could see in the gap that appeared when the Stone Golem attacked.

A single bluish stone that clearly shone from the Stone Golem.

“Found it, now destroy it!!!”

“Kwaah!!”

As soon as the energy core appeared, the blown stones rolled.

The arms, chest, and stomach made of stones began to cling to each other as if to refill the destroyed parts.

“Shut up! I got it!”

With a weird shout, boom-! The mace struck the energy core.

It only took one attack. It was not about the strength of the attack, it was about the speed in which the attack could reach before the golem had a chance to restore itself.

“Okay, well done.”

And after that one attack, all the warriors stopped attacking.

Boulders fell to the ground with a thump and scattered randomly.

“Whoa…… it really was in one hit.”

Was he too weak? Is its weakness the energy core that would turn off after one touch?

Leeha approached the party.

“Excuse me, with one attack. Is the energy core the golem’s weakness?”

“So- hmm? Yes?”


The warrior quickly scanned Leeha

He was surprised for a moment when he found out that Leeha was a ranged damage dealer, but soon put on a relieved expression.

They were a party of 5.

They can’t accept any additional members anymore.

“Haha, is this your first time coming to the golem zone?”

“Yes.”

“The testicle is the golem’s weakness. Well, I don’t know what you can do with that weapon. If you touch its testicle, the golem will die.”

“W-what?”

Where do I touch it?

“Testicles. What was the exact name? Oi, aiden!”

“Condensed Mana Core.”

“Condensed- Anyway, it has a difficult name, people who catch golems call it testicle. It is the same principle when you hit a man’s testicle, once it gets hit, he would die. Hahaha. Just pop the testicles with a mace and death would be inevitable.”

Leeha could not hide how absurd it was when he saw the warrior with a mustache and beard connected to his chin laugh.

‘T-That’s definitely true. If one was hit in the testicles with a mace, one would not survive.’

In that sense, it was strange that not only humans but also golems were the same. Anyways, if users are already calling it like that,

Leeha did not intend to disagree.

“Will the Stone Golems start its restoration process once its testicle is exposed?”

“Yes. Yes. So all you need to do is to hit it as quickly as possible. By the way, did you join a beginner’s party? You don’t know anything about the golems.”

“As you can see I am a ranged damage dealer……. I am not in a party.”

“Aigoo. Don’t die for nothing and go back. It’s a place where even warriors won’t be able to survive getting hit four to five times. Ranged damage dealers will die in one two hits.”

“Yes, yes. Thank you. Perhaps, know anything about the Brass Golem?”

“Brass Golem? The field boss roaming around the mines?”

“Yes.”

Why would you ask that? However, the warrior did not ask those words.

It was definitely worrying if someone who did not have any idea how to hunt a Stone Golem asked about the field boss.

“I know about it. Once it spawns the people in this area will immediately go to it. It is either we all die together, or we all live together.”

“How would you know when it’s up?”

“Hmm, the golem-.”

“The Stone Golem is almost here! Concentrate, focus!”

“-anyway, you will find out soon. We have to hunt now.”

At the shout of his party members, the warrior pulled out his weapon.

“Ah, yes. Thank you!”

“You might die if you go and look for the Brass Golem for nothing! Just leave!”

“Yes〜”

Leeha nodded and moved his feet.

However, he was not moving out of the Rock Mountain as the warrior recommended, but rather he was facing the mountain.

“Tsk, he’s crazy and wants to die.”

It was natural for the warrior facing the Stone Golem to think like this.

“Testicle…… If you touched its testicle……”

Leeha climbed the mountain with the feeling of his lower back getting chills somehow.

If there were people near person murmuring testicles, they would unconditionally call that person mentally ill, but fortunately, as Leeha climbed the Rock Mountain, the number of users was rapidly decreasing.

“Keung.”

Climbing the rocky areas without trees was difficult.

Above all, the problem was it was so flat, one could not measure the distance properly.

“The problem is serious, but……“

Leeha was constantly thinking while walking.

“Dealers with fast speed it because it is difficult to break the stones, and dealers with strong one-shots avoid it because it difficult to hunt because as soon as the testicle exposed, the golem will try to restore itself.”

So it was not a very popular area.

This was probably the reason why there were fewer users here compared to other hunting grounds, despite being a place where a field boss appears.

‘There are some at the foot of the mountain but. Hmm, what should I do anyway?’

Leeha paused for a moment to examine his musket.

It certainly had the destructive power to destroy stones. However, with its attack speed, it would be too late to destroy the testicles.

‘It’s recovery speed is still faster than my reload speed even with Delicate Hand Movement. Unless I could shoot two times in a row…‘

It would be possible if it was Browless.

It would be possible to break the testicles with that rapid-fire musket that could fire bullets in less than 5 seconds.

‘Or something more powerful. It would be possible if there was a powerful bullet that could penetrate the stone and reach the testicles at the same time.’

Leeha thought for a moment if he should use five to six bags of gunpowder for one bullet, but shook his head.

Increasing the amount of gunpowder would make the shots stronger, but the musket would not be able to withstand it.

“In the end, it should either be rapid-fire or penetration…… oh?”

Hit?

A thought suddenly flashed through Leeha’s mind.

Thoughts that came continuously. Rapid-fire, penetrate, hit.

‘Rapid fire Browless. Brown. And Bullseye……Elizabeth.’

What quest is he currently doing? What was the name of the quest?

Hit and Elizabeth!

‘Wait. This…… that’s why……’

Like a silhouette in a fog, an idea crept up in Leeha’s mind and disappeared.

‘Hit…… yes, I just have to hit the mark. I just have to touch it.’

What was the condition? ‘Closer’. Because you can’t see it from afar.

Leeha’s thoughts and feet did not stop.

Step, step… his idea was getting completed as he climbed the Rock Mountain.

‘However, is it really possible? No, I don’t know about other , but this is Middle Earth…. so it should be possible, right?’

Didn’t he deceive the wolf shot

Wasn’t the game famous for implementing real-world ideas?

“Good……. Let’s do it.”

If one came up with an idea, one needed to implement it immediately before the idea disappears.

As soon as the mine began to appear from distance, Leeha turned around and returned to the village.

Keururuk, keururuk—…….

“Hmm?”

He realized that something was changing around him. The wandering Stone Golems were running in one direction.

The few players around were feeling excited.

Hwiii—!

“What is that?”

At that time, something flying into the sky caught Leeha’s eyes. The light was dazzling and the shape could not be seen properly.

“Oh?”

However, he knew for sure that it was coming towards him.

“Waaah!!”

He quickly fled to avoid the unidentified flying object!

Kudang, the object that dropped near Leeha, rolled thrice.

“Haa, haa, what was that!”

He wanted to thank Middle Earth for its kindness.

Leeha couldn’t believe that they would give him something so threatening! It was also a dead person! A corpse that hasn’t turned gray yet!

“What? How-.”

“Ah——!!! The Brass Golem spawned!”

It was then that a loud shout was heard from the mine.

(To be continued…)

Note: Testicles in Korean is 고환 which is Kohwan.

And the formal name of the Golem Core is 고응집 마나 구슬 which is Ko-eung-chib mana kusul.

It’s a good pun in Korean that doesn’t really translate well in English.
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“Brass? Brass Golem?”

The Stone Golems began to run on the mountain.

Users also ran after the monsters. And then Leeha saw the mine from a distance.

Just now, in the direction where the body came from a huge gold object flashing in the sunlight was seen.

“Oh my god……“

There was a cartoon movie like that a long time ago. Glittering golden giant robot!

“Damn it! That’s on the level of a giant robot!”

Muuuuooo—-in

“Cough.”

Leeha’s ears and body were shaking, the sound waves and vibrations were everywhere.

『Tyuren roars』

『Slow status has been applied.』

『 speed has been reduced by 30% for 4 minutes.』

『Stamina is reduced to 50%.』

『Defense decreased by 10%.』

“Fire the signal!! All users at the foot of the mountain will come, quick!!!”

One user shouted and gripped his weapon.


The fierce-looking battleaxe seemed to have sufficient cutting and striking power.

“So it is like this. He meant that, if it showed up, I would know.”

Even Leeha could see that the surrounding atmosphere had changed instantly.

“The Stone Golems gathered. Is it like this at the base of the mountain?”

Golems ran around endlessly the entrance of the mine.

It seemed like the Brass Golem, churn, gathered the Stone Golems to use as his subordinates.

Pyuuuu—…….

It was like a God under the sunset sky.

Leeha saw countless users running from the foot of the mountain.

‘There should be at least 50 people. It is larger than a raid party.’

There’s a saying, the more people present, the more worries to be had. And if the users are this fast? How would Leeha catch it ‘solo’?

“Attack!! Damage dealers! It’s Beast Khan’s party!!”

“Please let us join too!”

The crowd began to unite by sending raid requests.

It took less than 5 minutes for the Stone Golems to run toward the mine.

‘In other words, I have to hunt the Brass Golem within 5 minutes. Leeha must catch the robot-like bastard… within 5 minutes……

Muoooo—!!!

Around the time the air shook again, the confrontation between the Brass Golem and the users started.

Leeha further away from them.

“Spread around the 5th party in charge of the Stone Golems! Gry-Trap catchers, pour everything on the Brass Golem!”


Yes!

The person who fired the signal flare and shouted at the users naturally became the raid captain.

Users ran towards the dozens of Stone and the Brass Golem proudly standing in the middle.

“Heavy Slash!”

“Enchant Weapon: Strength!”

“Mana Shield!” A flash of gold and silver. Magical effects flowed like pollen and blessed the warriors in front.

“Fire Spear!”

“Ice Spear!”

“Ice Blast!”

And the strong attack magic flew over their heads.

They had no problem aiming at the Brass Golem because it was so huge.

Muoooh—!

Dong, dong!

Magic exploded in the huge brass and smoke rose like water vapor.

“Run! There were cheers on the battlefield, wuoooh–!!”

“Rush!”

“Bash!”

Stone Golems are getting smashed everywhere, the Brass Golem was faltering under magic and users who only the size of the Brass Golem’s thighs leaped forward!

“That’s great.”

It was a scene that could only be seen in a blockbuster movie.


Leeha turned on the video recording mode and .

After all, it would be impossible to clear the quest as long as the users rushed in like that.

‘The problem would be its restoration cycle. Well, once it gets caught, it should respawn within 15 days.’

And the spawn point is already set.

As the warrior said to Leeha before, if he went to the entrance, he just had to wait there.

‘I just need to figure out how to hunt it.’

Muwoooh–!

The Brass Golem swung its arm. From his perspective of people in front of the golem, it was a landslide-like attack.

“Jump! If you get swept away, you die! Avoid it and cut off its arms! Wizards only attack the chest!”

“The body- it’s slowing down-.”

The face of the warrior with the mace turned pale.

Normally, it’s a speed that could be avoided by running fast enough, but the slow effect was annoying.

The warrior was swept away by the Brass Golem’s arm, like a broom sweeping away dust.

“Phew……. It’s definitely going to be hard to avoid.”

Leeha suddenly thought of popcorn. In terms of liveliness, the raid was better than a movie.

Mut-!

“Spike!!! S-Step back! 20 seconds from now!”

The golem’s arms rose to the sky. The already big guy raised its arms to the point of looking like a small tower!

“Ugh, the sun is dazzling. What kind of attack is Spike? 20 seconds?”

The arms of the golem that went to the sky rotated.

Its body did not care about joints anyway, so something like that was possible. Leeha was amazed by this.

The Brass Golem’s arms kept spinning. There was no counterattack to it, and the users rushed to away from it.

‘Why won’t they attack? At times like this-.’

Muwoooh!

And Leeha knew. When users do not attack, there always a reason for it.

The Brass Golem, whose arms were spinning, flew forward.

Spike, it was literally striking it down.

A ranged attack with all the weight and rotation of the Brass Golem exploded on the Rock Mountain.

Kwaaaaang—!

A roar came along with the explosion in the Rock Mountain.

“W-whoah, oh my god. It could reach here?”

The distance was far. But Leeha felt the ground shaking where he was standing.

“kuwaaah–”

“Wah! Heal! Fast-.”

Then it should be worse in the center. Leeha looked at the spot where Churn was located.

Traces of vibration spread like a concentric circle.

There were not many users who were standing properly. In particular, the users at the center who were able to avoid already turned .

It was a death sentence.

Kururuk, kururuk—.

Chuyaap! Chuyaap!

“What the fuck! It’s a Gry-Trap! Wizards attack magic- aahk! My feet!”

“Weapon! You have a weapon!”

Stone Golems and Gry-Traps began to the raid. The Brass Golem clearly showed the majesty of a field boss.

“I can’t help it! Ignore those who are caught! Focus on the Brass Golem’s chest! Only its chest!”

Kaang- kaang-!

The surviving warriors once again ran with vigor.

They slammed and swung their weapon with momentum, but stone and brass are different in nature!

‘It doesn’t break easily.’

It has the toughness of steel as well as its strength.

Although the hardness of stone and brass were similar, the strong brass only got bent or , but it did not ‘break’.

“Put a hole in its chest! Then we will win-.”

“Ice Blast!”

“Fire Spear!”

Magic cut through the air once again.

The two magic attacks hit the golem’s solar plexus in succession while it was swinging its arms.

Chyuuu-.

The brass froze and then melted by the combination attack.

And exposed a little hole. In the narrow space the size of a human face, the testicles of the Brass Golem were shown.

“Testicles!!! Hurry up-.”

“Get out of the way! Last magic!”

Pachit, pachichit-!

White light flashed on the user’s body who had been hiding all along.

“Wait! what magic is that? No’!

”

For the Brass Golem, lightning magic is-”

“Thunder–!!!!”

A milky white light was emitted from the user.

—

“Oh! That’s right!”

It was clearly seen by Leeha.

The Brass Golem was hit by a lightning bolt that was fired in an instant, and sparks flew flashing near its huge body.

“There’s also a paralysis effect! When the restoration stops, they could quickly attack the testicles.”

—

“You bastard! What happens when you pour electricity into the brass!”

“What?”

“It would have been better if you shot fire magic-.”

However, the face of the user, who was the raid captain, became pale. Stone resists lightning, and brass itself is resistant to electric shock.

That’s why one should never use lightning-based magic during a Brass Golem raid.

It was the reason why only fire, ice, and wind mages are here in the Rock Mountain

and not lightning mages. Of course, since thunder has already been activated, what was left was.

muoh, muho, muoh——!

“Whoah, surely……“

Pachit, pachit, and the sparks from the golem’s body gathered together.

It gathered in the head of the Brass Golem.

The mass of energy gathered in front of the 4 to 5 m long golem.

The milky-white energy that the user shot, and the testicles of the golem’s chest, had a similar color

Muwoooooh!

Kwachachachak, the lightning bolt that was shot towards the users was much stronger than that of the .

“Crazy……“

Most of the mages died in the laser beam-like attack that skimmed through the users and burned the rocks.

The users who were clearing the Stone Golems around them and the warriors who barely managed to escape the lightning magic looked around.

There was only one course of action. And it was to run away.

“Kwaaaah!!!”

“Jump! Jump!”

The Brass Golem raid, which was close to success, collapsed from a single mistake of a user.

“Me too!”

“Quickly!”

“Gray-Trap- Puuok!” The Brass Golem’s fist slammed the user, who got caught by the Gray-Trap, in the torso.

The monster in the Rock Mountain made it impossible to escape.

Of the 50 users in the raid, only 5 survived.

Leeha also grabbed his musket and left.

It was only a matter of time before the Stone Golems and Gray-Traps, who lost their targets, Leeha.

‘That…… He wants me to catch that alone?’

Gulp, Leeha had a hard time swallowing his saliva.

(To be continued…)
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Muooh—!!!

『Tyuren roared.』

『Slow status has been applied.』

『Movement speed has been reduced by 30% for 4 minutes.』

『Stamina has been reduced to 50%』

『Defense decreased by 10%.』

‘Crazy.’

He was in a hurry but his steps were slow. The pursuit of the monsters, which were agitated by the roar of Tyuren, was quite fierce.

Leeha could hear the screams of users from behind, but he didn’t have time to look back.

‘Those people must have lost a lot of items too. Ugh, I can’t risk my life trying to loot those.’

Their minimum level was 60. There were probably users who were at level 70.

As many as 50 users died, but couldn’t get close to the items.

It was only after running for a long time could Leeha feel at ease.

Stone Golems that had escaped from the Brass Golem’s influence and some users could be seen in the .

“Phew…”

‘This is outside its scope.’

Leeha couldn’t see the Brass Golem anymore.

‘Still, I got information…’


It was valuable information using the sacrifice of fifty people. For now, I need to get stronger, like the time before I hunted Hijuit-Ka! If Leeha approached the Brass Golem without any information, he would have hit a dead end.

The fact that lightning magic didn’t work or it could summon the nearby golems was secondary information for Leeha. The most important thing was the golden hour.

‘The first five minutes. He needed to see its core.’

A scenario was drawn in Leeha’s mind.

If he combined the idea he thought of in order to deal with the Stone Golems and the pattern of the Brass Golem.

“Huh, it’s a complete gamble.”

However, Leeha’s desire to win stimulated him.

‘There are at least two other people who could handle a musket well.’

He didn’t know if they cleared this quest, but Leeha could guess that they did.

When Leeha passed the test to shoot a target 100m away, two other people already passed it.

‘They cleared this. No, even if they didn’t clear this quest, they should have cleared a quest to hunt a monster similar difficulty to the Brass Golem.’

Then it shouldn’t be impossible. It is close to a life-threatening adventure, but it should be possible to clear it.

That fact aroused Leeha’s morale.

“Good. Let’s get ready.”

Leeha was at the foot of Tenero and ran to the small village located in front of it.

There were countless items to be prepared and an amount of work to be tested.

“Looking for a golem party~ I’m a level 60 two-handed blunt warrior~ I’m using a level 40 maul~ so take me with you. Party invitation notice~”

Pongtang screamed incessantly, but no one looked at the warrior.

“Ah, I won’t force you.”

It was a town overflowing with warriors.


If it was a priest, he would be accepted even if he held a sword, but for a level 60 warrior with a level 40 weapon.

“Ais, it’s because of damned -Trap.”

He looked at the hammer he was holding and took a deep breath.

On the first day he arrived, he was happy and went for a walk to take a look.

He just knew that he needed to be careful of Gry-Traps but he didn’t know that would be invisible.

Because he wielded his weapon in a hurry when he got caught, he dropped his level 55 rapier.

“Noone even helped me, they just watched me get hit and die. Damned bastards.”

A man passed by the grumbling warrior.

The man wore a fur coat that looked old but had a luxurious color. He had a bone necklace and a hunting cap. And a stick-type weapon that the warrior had never seen before.

Although the man was low-leveled, his confident step and expression made the warrior uncomfortable.

“A bastard like that could also hunt here, but they won’t even let me join in a party? Can’t they see that I look stronger? It’s not like he’s able to kill something with that He doesn’t even seem to have a party?”

The man came from the village’s marketplace. There was no one around him, so he was definitely alone.

And he was going toward the Rock Mountain. When he saw the man walking alone, he felt suffocated and remembered the past.

‘No, he’s not in a party?! And he just came to town! Haha, wouldn’t it be great if he was caught by a Gry-Trap?’

The warrior couldn’t find a party anyway, so he followed the man.

He slowly walked and followed.

The man ran surprisingly fast and did not get tired, so the warrior had a hard time keeping up with him.

‘He’s not even a ranged damage dealer so why is he so fast? Does he have good shoes?’ The wooden stick on his back looked like a two-handed blunt weapon…….

I have never seen it before. If one took the of a Warhammer, it would look like that.

He thought of following the man and taking a peek and imagined how refreshing it would be to see him die, and if the man dropped an item, that would be a bonus.


What if the bastard had a party?

‘Instead of the man who died on the way, I can ask if I could join them. Hehe.’

Dreaming of hitting three birds with one stone, Pongtang eagerly pursued the man.

On the Rock Mountain where the sun floated in the middle of the sky, gravel fields that were rarely shaded, spread out.

Kururuk, kururuk-.

‘It’s out! It’s out!’

A Stone Golem spawned in the direction the man was walking.

Even for a two-handed blunt warrior like himself, it looked threatening to Pongtang. He looks like a lousy bastard, will he die in one shot?

Pongtang hid behind a rock nearby.

Did the man not see the Stone Golem? He hadn’t even looked at the approaching Stone Golem.

The man took out the weapon he wore.

Pongtang expected something to happen, but the man just relaxedly touched something.

‘Hehe, it’s too late to look now! Die!’

And for a brief moment, a light flashed.

Baang!

“W-whoa?!”

There’s an explosion!

“What! What!”

As the roar continued, Pongtang shook his head in surprise.

When the explosion that made Pongtang’s ears ring, barely subsided, he lifted his head and there was no longer a trace of the Stone Golem.

Only remnant rocks were scattered here and there.

“Whoah! What? Is he a mage?”

Pongtang rolled his eyes in embarrassment. Pongtang had never seen it before, magic without casting or chanting.

“What happened to the Stone Golem?”

As he ran, Leeha found a Stone Golem that recently spawned. And in a single moment, he made two consecutive moves.

After two explosions, the Stone Golem disappeared without a trace.

『You leveled up.』

“Good, good.”

White light enveloped Leeha’s body.

10 days have passed since he first discovered the Brass Golem.

‘It never showed up after that. I thought it would respawn after five days or even after a week……

The appearance of the field boss was irregular, but he still had some faith.

‘The quest limit is 15 days. It should come out before the limit.’

It was really fortunate that he met the Brass Golem on the first day.

Because of that, Leeha had the time to test his ideas and prepare in various ways.

Also, thanks to his efforts waste time, his situation had changed a lot compared to 10 days ago.

“Character window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 57 (0%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement:

22

HP: 2,490 / MP： 505

Stats: Strength: 55(+40)

Agility: 473(+144)

: 58(+43)

Constitution: 101(+33) Mind: 27(+17)

Remaining stat points: 5

‘I didn’t get any achievement or title but……

It was simple to hunt golem but it was not enough to hunt hundreds or thousands.

Above all, his ideas consumed a lot of resources.

Still, it was not surprising that Leeha leveled up from 48 to 57 in just 10 days, as five warriors at level 60 to 70 were needed to hunt one golem.

‘If he had poured out a little more money, he would have been able to get to level 60. But he couldn’t overdo it right now.’

Leeha put his remaining stats constitution. The points he obtained from leveling up were evenly distributed between agility and constitution.

‘Now HP 2,590. It’s still dangerous.’

It was 10 days ago, but Leeha still remembered it vividly. He watched the video several times to understand the hunting pattern of the Brass Golem.

If he got hit with the Spike attack, he would die in one hit. Definitely.

If he barely and hit with the splash attack, will he survive?

“Phew……

Leeha closed the character window and looked at his musket. The hot barrel still hadn’t cooled down.

‘As expected…’

Leeha’s face darkened.

It has only been used for a short period of time compared to the low-grade crude musket. It was quite heartbreaking for Leeha to use his rifle like this.

‘Money is money, but it is really sad that my musket is like this. Phew-!’

But it couldn’t be helped. This was the only method of breakthrough that Leeha found.

Leeha climbed the Rock Mountain again after checking his musket.

His goal is the Tenero peak. At a nearby resting point in the copper mine.

“But why can’t they see it?”

Leeha was looking at the users while muttering as he ate the sandwich made in the village.

There was a shouting warrior caught by a Gry-Trap and his party member who next to him.

No matter how much camouflaged it was, the Gry-Trap had a different color, and it was obvious where they hiding. Leeha had seen users suffer from Gry-Trap many times, but he couldn’t get used to it.

“I can’t understand. Is that how warriors are?”

Not only the warriors but also the mages were unable to move properly because of the -Trap’s sticky mucus.

‘I mean, I could see it clearly.’

The outline was clearly defined in his sight, but the human next to it could not see the -Trap.

‘Tsk tsk. It’s because they let their guard down.’

Leeha smiled and lowered his musket again and ate his sandwich.

His cooking level is now level 9. Soon it was time for its grade to go up.

‘Come to think of it, musket mastery is at intermediate level 5, and calm mind is now intermediate level 2.’

The fact that there were two skills that are beyond beginner rank made him feel like an expert, but it was still a long way from being an expert.

Above all, he didn’t know that the increase in ‘accuracy’ provided by Musket Mastery and Calm Mind had an additional effect of improving eyesight….

Kururuk, kururuk-.

“Did it spawn again? It would be difficult if my musket breaks.”

Leeha dealt with the Stone Golems that appeared from time to time easily. Another day went by as Leeha accumulated experience points.

The pale purple sunset disappeared, and now, it was difficult to even get a proper view without sunlight.

Thump… Thump.

The sound of footsteps from afar reached Leeha’s ears.

It was not the light and short sound of a Stone Golem. The trembling that made the rocks in the Rock Mountain rise.

A black silhouette glimmering at the entrance of the mine. As if the moonlight could not illuminate its bluish and dark appearance.

“It has come……!”

Leeha quickly looked around.

There were no users.

There were two teams far from the mine. How many more teams are there near the bottom of the mountain where there At least there were not enough people in the nearby vicinity to form a raid.

Muooh—!!!

The air vibrated.

The effect one could see before the system window opened. It felt like this when the blood in the body had cooled down.

『Tyuren roared.』

『Slow status has been applied.』

『Movement speed has been reduced by 30% for 4 minutes.』

『Stamina is reduced to 50%.』

『Defense decreased by 10%.』

“Phew, it’s on. It’s been 10 days.”

The field boss of the Rock Mountain finally appeared.

“Uwaaak!! The field boss, brass Golem!”

“R-run! Go to the village and call people!”

“Wow, it’s so big! Can’t we catch that?”

“Haven’t you seen the video where 50 people got annihilated? If you provoke it, you will die! Unconditionally!”

The shouts of users were heard by Leeha.

He expected them to take care of the nearby Stone Golems but it was wishful thinking.

(To be continued…)
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‘It’s okay. It’s better for them to leave.’

Leeha immediately opened his bag and took out a scroll. He tore it apart and a silvery brilliance wrapped around his body.

『All status ailments have been removed.』

Then he picked up a yellow vial and drank from it.

『Slow resistance increased by 20%.』

“How much did all of this cost!”

It still required investment. Now, it is at a level where he should not hunt recklessly and should only aim for the body.

After confirming that the users were going down, Leeha held his musket firmly.

‘People from the base of the mountain should arrive in the next five minutes.’

However, the current situation where it was nighttime was worse than last time. If it took time to assemble a raid, then Leeha would have some leeway.

‘Okay, in 10 minutes! I should take care of it solo!’

Step by step, Leeha ran.

Muwooh!

“It’s so big, damn it! Delicate Hand Movement!”

The Delicate Hand Movement was at level 8. His reload time was fixed to 30 seconds for 370 seconds.

Leeha planned to clear everything up before the duration of the skill was over.

Bang-!

Muu?


Leeha felt cold sweat run down his spine when the Brass Golem turned its head.

“Did it not do much damage?”

Muwooooh!!

Kung, kung, kung!

The Brass Golem found the human that tickled its torso and moved his massive body.

A group of Stone Golems escorting the shining Brass Golem roughly made way.

There was only one human facing the aggro of the field boss, brass Golem, and the normal monsters Stone Golems.

If anyone saw it, they would think that the man was a high-level user or a crazy person.

“Come on! I also have something to show you!”

The madman screamed and started to run towards the Brass Golem and Stone Golems.

Kururk, kururuk-!

Muooo—-.

『You have resisted the status effect ‘Slow’.』

“It’s expensive! Small fries get lost!”

As Leeha ran and reloaded at the same time.

Click-!

There was a long thin line where the fire was lit. When the sparks started the line started toshorte, Leeha threw an object with all his might.

Claaaaang—!

Muoo?!

“That’s 100 gunpowders in one go!”


Bang-!

There was no need to stop. While he was running, Leeha lifted his musket and shot!

Even before the flames of the improvised bomb disappeared, bullets flew from it and dug into the Stone Golems testicles.

Any other musketeer would not have believed that not one but several Stone Golems collapsed simultaneously.

Musketeers only have ranged attacks?

“If you don’t have the skill, then you don’t have it! You should make something similar and use it! Isn’t it, bra-ss?”

Muooh—!

“Kuwaah-!”

And the golem king did not just watch his subordinates get obliterated.

Whoa!

With great momentum, the Brass Golem swung its arm.

Leeha bent his waist and barely passed under the Brass Golem’s arm.

It was an attack that generated such a strong wind that could blow people’s hair away in just a swipe!

“Wouldn’t one swipe kill me?”

The ignorant attack passed Leeha and hit the Stone Golems.

Kuook!

In one attack, the Stone Golems were dismantled, with their arms and chest scattering. If he was lucky, Leeha thought that he could survive one attack, but he changed his mind.

He could not survive that attack at all.

Chiii, chiiii–!

Leeha lit two bombs at the same time.


One was thrown towards the Stone Golems and the other was thrown towards his true goal.

“Heup!”

The flame attached to the fuse drew a parabola.

Compared to the Brass Golem, the flame was ridiculously cute, but its explosive power was horrific.

Kwaaaaang—! Muooong-!

With a single blow, the body of the Brass Golem was pushed back.

‘Eat it!’

It was the explosive power that could destroy the Stone Golems in one shot.

Although it was resistant to lightning magic, it was already confirmed that flame and ice magic works against it.

Leeha’s first strategy was the bomb.

‘I was able to create a claymore without any preparation. It wasn’t even a bomb, it’s like a bunch of primitive gunpowder!’

If one had money, one could make anything.

Since it was made by combining 100 gunpowder, each bomb was equivalent to 4 silver, but Leeha had a lot of extra money!

Leeha lit a bomb once more and threw it at the Brass Golem.

Booom__一!

After two consecutive explosions, there was still no hole in the Brass Golem’s chest.

“Then one more shot.”

Kurururuk, Kururuk-!

However, the crisis cannot be overlooked. As he saw the Stone Golems rushing towards him in a swarm, Leeha changed his throwing posture.

“Damn it! It’s a waste to use this on you guys!”

A roar echoed through the Rock Mountain once more.

The testicle exposed by the explosion was immediately shot by a musket.

Bang, boom, bang-!

On one side of the mountain where explosions and shooting, and restoration and recreation of golem happened randomly, it was a scene of peerless artillery.

“Die, die!”

Click, a bomb flew once more and cleared the darkness.

In the series of explosions and shootings, Leeha’s ears were also affected.

Golems could move without their head, and capture a target, but what about a ?

‘Damn it!……’

Tinnitus rang in his ear.

Leeha could no longer hear the creaking and rattling of the Stone Golems and Brass Golem that was coming towards him!

“There’s a long way to go!”

Rubbing his ears, Leeha ran again.

He did not stop. He needed to take advantage of the slow speed of the Brass and Stone Golems!

Leeha threw bombs and smashed the exposed testicles of the golems by switching between regular and prepared ammunition.

“Waah!!!”

Muoooh–!!

The roar of the Brass Golem covered Leeha’s voice.

It was a bad vibration that made one’s skin tremble.

Leeha once again lit and threw a bomb.

Booom__一!

With a stagger, the Brass Golem fell back and the Stone Golems were destroyed again. Leeha’s senses gradually heightened.

‘I can do it! It’s working!’

It was faster than a warrior and stronger than magic.

Incredible explosion and fire that seemed to convert money into attack power.

Seeing the decreased number of golems, Leeha gained confidence.

‘Now only the Brass Golem-.’

Mut-!

And finally, the Brass Golem raised its arm.

The brass-colored arm stretched toward the moon and began to rotate like a drill, and Leeha could see the convection rising along with the tornado.

“Spike!”

The Brass Golem’s special move had a casting time of 20 seconds!

“Faster… damn it!”

He hurriedly lit and threw a bomb, but it went in the wrong direction.

The intense flame melted the Brass Golem, but its arm was still spinning.

“Damn it, if this happens-.”

First of all, Leeha needed to widen their distance! Leeha bent and avoided the attack of a Stone Golem and leaned forward.

‘As far away as possible! I need to get as far away as possible! That attack-.’

Muwoooh!

There was a long vibration.

Leeha could tell using his intuition. He ran and turned his head.

Leeha felt like it had suddenly changed to slow motion, but at the same time, his own movement speed slowed down.

The Brass Golem had his spinning hand slam down the ground.

The attack was strong enough that it was still able to hit Leeha from a distance.

‘Fuck.’

Baang—!

“kuwaak! keuk!”

With a strong impact like getting hit by a hammer on his back, Leeha’s body bounced forward.

The impact was strong enough to impact the surrounding Stone Golems!

“Cough, ptoo……”

How many meters did fly? After rolling a few times on the gravel field, Leeha was barely able to get up.

Being swept away just by the aftershock?

‘Huh, there’s a time like this.’

There was barely anything visible to his left and right.

How many golems are still left? The only thing left from Leeha’s vision was the Brass Golem.

In a situation where there was no light source, half of his vision was lost due to his decreased HP. For a musketeer, it was like a death sentence.

Muoo-! Muoo!

Thump, thump.

He could hear the Brass Golem moving towards him. It must have been more than 5 minutes since the battle started.

‘Damn it! Isn’t this interesting? I can’t die and people can’t come. If it’s not this or that, I will exceed the deadline.’

In other words, whether he died or away, the moment he went beyond ‘now’, he would fail.

‘Even if I throw a bomb, the damage will be – huh?’

Kuung, kuung, at the chest of the approaching Brass Golem.

The yellow chest illuminated by moonlight caught Leeha’s eyes.

‘It has taken damage! This would obviously be the last time……!’

In a similar situation before, it got hit by magic and melted.

In one shot! I only need one shot!

“It’s loaded but……”

This one shot would be difficult.

Time is tight. Even if I throw a bomb, it is clear that I would die before I could hit its testicle.

Mut-!

The Brass Golem began to cast spike again as if it knew that Leeha would not be able to escape.

The Brass Golem’s arm raised up into the sky

and began to rotate.

‘I only need to shoot it once-.’

Leeha looked at his hand leaning against his musket. How could I block it once?

“There’s no time left, I need to hurry!”

Leeha moved faster. He took out a bomb and lit it.

Spike would be cast within the next 5 seconds.

“Hwaaaa!!!”

Muoooh–!!

Leeha threw the bomb with all his might. At the same time

the Brass Golem’s spike flew.

The bomb flew into the center of the jumping Brass Golem’s chest.

Boom!

The Brass Golem’s testicle was exposed with the explosion.

Leeha was in a shooting posture. He only onceto shoot once.

“And I only need to hold on, to shoot once.”

(To be continued…)
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Phew-!

The Brass Golem’s arms reached through the flames.

It was not aiming for a splash attack this time.

It tried to press down using its lower body.

“Haaa-!”

However, Leeha’s posture did not waver.

Rather, he tightened his body even more and aimed his musket. Leeha only had one goal.

Just before the Brass Golem.

“Force barrier!!!!”

M-muo?

Shuaaaa—!

A turquoise translucent shield wrapped around Leeha.

The Brass Golem’s spinning arm hit, but- bang! It only echoed and reverberated!

“And this is the second attack method.”

Leeha pulled the trigger.

No special aiming was required. If the musket was loaded with 20 mini iron bullets, there will be no problem touching the testicle as long as it is aimed in the right direction.

Bang—!

Middle Earth’s first shotgun fired towards the Brass golem.


*****

“Faster!”

“But is it possible with this ?”

“Ah, it should work! Last time that nerd bastard used lightning magic! And even if we fail, we won’t die. I survived last time!”

As the mage tilted his head, the warrior screamed.

As soon as he heard the news of the appearance of the Brass Golem he succeeded in organizing a raid team.

The leader was a user who joined the Brass Golem raid 10 days ago.

‘Haha, this is great. It was worth waiting until the middle of the night.’

And in the middle of the party, Pongtang grabbed hold of his maul and was running hard.

‘I couldn’t even join a golem party, so I was restless, but I was able to join a boss raid! Even with 50 people, there’s a chance that my experience will rise by 10%! And if I want to upload a video I need to turn on the recording.’

He had never seen or heard of the Brass Golem, but he was relieved that there were people who had experienced it already.

Besides, there were about 49 people surrounding Pongtang.

Even if the raid failed, he should be able to earn revenue on the video alone.

Boom—!

“Waah?! What was that sound? Someone must have come first!”

“Whoa, what the fuck does that mean……. Didn’t you say there was no one else ?”

The raid leader glared at a man.

One of the users who had run away while hunting near the copper mine quickly shook his head.

“T-there was nobody! There were only two parties hunting there, mine and Zest’s party. All ten of us are here!”

“Then who……. No, let’s go up. Run! Fast!”


The sound of gravel being stepped on was heard.

Who the hell was trying to crush 50 people’s dreams?

But even the raid leader thought it was not reasonable.

No other team climbed from the base of the mountain. There shouldn’t be anyone fighting the Brass Golem.

Bang——!

Muoo!

“What the. What is this vibration now?”

“This is crazy. Can we really catch it?”

The shaking of the ground, which should support the human body, spread fear and shook their ‘foundation’ of safety.

Even when the users were half-excited and half-fearful, the raid captain knew its cause.

‘Spike……. Someone really is fighting it.’

Who? Were there any hidden teams? Is there a control guild?

The Brass Golem has a long cycle and poor hunting efficiency, so control guilds probably won’t be interested.

‘Field bosses with ranged attacks are generally ignored. It would be better for those guilds to hunt regular boss mobs.’

But the spike was real. The raid captain urged the raid members again.

“Let’s go!”

50 people ran up the Rock Mountain.

A mage slipped on the gravel, and even gray-traps appeared in between, but it could not stop them as they were blinded by the Brass Golem raid.

“H-here-!”

And as they arrived at the copper mine, what greeted them was the Brass Golem, which had its arms raised and spinning.


“Shit, spike! Spread out! Spread out! It would be dangerous for mages if you are in its splash radius!”

“Captain! Isn’t that a person there?”

“Oh? A person? Where?”

“T-there really is! Right there! He’s squatting, isn’t he?”

“I can’t see well, where is he?”

The raid team roared.

‘

There’s someone fighting the Brass Golem in the moonlight, when it was so dark that even a silhouette could not be seen properly?

Muoooo—!!

“Spiiiiike!!”

It was a threatening shout that some people even tried to prepare by taking out a potion in advance.

The 5m tall body flew.

Kwaahang-!

At the same time, fireworks suddenly exploded.

“Waak? That magic-.”

“There was no casting?”

“Wait, the t-testicle-! The testicle is exposed-.”

But it was not the only surprise.

A translucent green light enveloped the invisible silhouette. And the sound of the Brass Golem striking the sphere.

Booom–!

“Aagh, what is that?”

“Is that a user? What kind of skill did he use twice in a row?”

“No way! The shield was able to block the Brass Golem’s attack?”

Not only the users but even the Brass Golem was bewildered with the shield.

And another explosion erupted from the silhouette inside the shield.

Baaang!

“Huh?”

They couldn’t even speak anymore.

The light of the Brass Golem’s testicle, which could be seen through the gap in the Brass Golem’s melted chest, went out!

“No way……?”

“Amazing…… did he catch it? A solo raid?”

All raid members knew. The death of the field boss Tyuren.

“It’s crazy to solo the Brass Golem-.”

Hwaaaak——I

White light emitted from the user’s body inside the green shield.

Brighter and more sacred than the moonlight, it lit up the vicinity of the copper mine.

“Waah, it’s dazzling!”

“Someone record this!”

“Sir! The one who soloed the Brass Golem! Please tell us your strategy!”

The raid members shouted at random, but the user’s movements were rather busy.

He hurriedly approached the Brass Golem.

“That person……?”

The constant white light made their eyelids heavy, but they could see the ground.

“T-the person from before! H-Hotbari!”

You’re the one who killed the stone golem in one shot right? Using the strange wooden weapon-!

“Sir一!!”

Shwaak, the source of white light disappeared, and when the raid members started running towards the , the disappeared.

“Whoah…… amazing. Did he catch this by himself?”

“Isn’t he a ranker? He almost burned the ground…”

“I-I know right? I think only a ranker could do it.”

Where they ran, only the corpses of the stone golems, whose bodies were either broken or split, and the Brass Golem, with its chest melted and crushed, remained.

“There was no item.”

“The stone golems didn’t have any items either. He looted it pretty well.”

The raid members touched the bodies of the Brass Golem and stone golems to check if items would drop, but the user was quite frugal.

‘I’m glad I recorded it…… I should get some pocket money with this.’

When the noisy raid members were discussing the identity of the user,

Pongtang tried to play the recorded video quietly.

It was a short video with less than 30 seconds that was useful, but he knew it would definitely be popular.

***

“Phew……. It is going to be a big deal. All of a sudden, the players……“

They got caught up in it for nothing.

‘I’m sure they will ask me about the bomb, and how to make the bomb.’

Leeha didn’t think he could tell them that.

Leeha used a return scroll that he had saved for emergencies, but he did not think it was a waste.

“Hehehe. Hahahaha.

‘

He was currently at the small village near Rock Mountain.

The very place where the users who went to catch the golem gathered.

Leeha barely resisted laughing.

‘I need to go back to the capital…… Let’s go back to the capital and rejoice, hahahahaha, damn it, I didn’t think that it is so hard to hold back laughter.’

He walked away giggling.

How much was the warp gate to the capital? It wasn’t a waste now!

“To Aelstock!”

“The capital of Fibiel Kingdom, aelstock. 1 person. The cost is-.”

“70 silver. Right? Keep the change.”

“……Thank you, sir. I got 70 silver and 2 copper. Please step into the magic circle.”

The woman had an absurd look on her face but only spoke with the predetermined answer.

“You won’t send me to a strange place, right? I didn’t even have 2 coppers before, so I wasn’t able to eat bread一 ”

“……We wish you a pleasant trip.”

The corner of her mouth was raised, but her eyes were not smiling at all.

She cut off Leeha’s joke and activated the magic circle.

“Uwaah!”

Leeha was now familiar with the sensation of falling from the sky and he returned to the capital, aelstock.

“Let’s go with the light stick~~~Looking party!”

“Does anyone want to go to the Emerald Forest~?”

The always bustling capital’s warp gate.

At least now, such a commotion was rather pleasant. Now Leeha felt he was free to scream!

“Hooooray—–!!!!! Waahahahahaha! I completed it!!!”

“W-what?”

“What crazy……“

Of course, the surrounding were surprised, but Leeha did not care.

He thought it was an almost impossible quest.

It was already difficult to even catch a single stone golem, but catch a Brass Golem alone!

‘I did it…… I did it!’

Leeha grabbed the barrel of the needle gun and kissed it wildly.

He could taste the pungent flavor of iron, but he did not care.

‘It was hard, needle Gun. Sorry for making fun of you! You endured the illegally modified shotgun bullets!’

It was quite embarrassing to even call it a shotgun. It was all about finely slicing the iron bullets and firing them.

Even the primitive shotgun, the trumpet gun, had a barrel mouth, but the needle gun was not even that.

It was all about letting the shattered bullets go in the direction of the muzzle, and that was a heavy burden on the gun.

Although the iron bullet was finely cut,

it was not fired along the barrel but rather spread out randomly inside the barrel.

‘The barrel held up. As long as it leaves the muzzle, the bullets will go straight.’

Besides, what was the weakness of golems? Testicle!

The testicle did not need to be beaten or crushed. The idea of just touching it was the starting point of the shotgun bullet.

(To be continued…)
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‘It’s a monster whose weakness is that it turns off when you touch “it”!’

Leeha decided to repair the needle gun first.

After all, it was nighttime. He was not in a rush because the blacksmith’s door was closed.

When the sun rose in Middle Earth, that’s when his work could be finished.

“Hmm~ this is what I can do for now.”

Before logging out at the front of the blacksmith’s door, Leeha opened his notification window.

『 Achievement: Let’s make a brass instrument (C+) 』

Congratulations! You have successfully hunted the King of the Golems, brass Golem Tyuren. The reopening of the copper mine and the outer shell of the Brass Golem will greatly help the Fibiel Kingdom’s finances!

Reward: Strength +6，Constitution +6，Fibiel Kingdom Contribution +90

『 Achievement: Master of Solo Play(B) 』

Congratulations! You defeated an enemy with more than 40 levels of difference from yourself. A shining victory awaits you who is ready to die in battle.

Reward: 14 stat points.

You are the third to achieve 『Master of Solo Play』.

The first three achievers will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% reward of the original reward will be applied.

Effect: 28 Stat points.

『 Achievement : Crafting Star (D+) 』

Congratulations! You have created an efficient product by combining materials, and its effect has been verified. We would like to express small gratitude for enriching life on Middle Earth. Until the day the Crafting Star can craft stars!

Reward: Intelligence +6, mind +3, skill – Name （Style）


“Great……”

It made Leeha happy to see it again.

‘The 『Emperor of solo play』 was a long time ago, right? This time, it’s 『Master of Solo Play』.’

Leeha had overcome 50 levels and caught it. If one thought about it, it would be crazier than it is now.

‘At that time, I was the first to get it and it was still possible for two more people who could fill the 40 level gap.’

After all, Leeha knew that it was almost impossible. It was not just about changing weapons or armor.

One needed money! This proves that money could overcome the gap of 40 levels.

‘Just like when I made bombs, other people could also make things with money. They must have filled the gap of 40 levels with those items.’

That was Leeha’s reasoning, seeing that he was not able to get to the Hall of Fame for the Crafting Star achievement.

“Before going to sleep, character window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 67 (17%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 25

HP: 2,780 / MP: 570

Stats: Strength:61 (+46)

Agility: 473 (+144)

Intelligence: 64 (+49)

Constitution: 112 (+39)

Mind: 30 (+20)

Remaining Stat points: 82


“E-eighty two!”

The stat points were the result of leveling up and achievement.

Leeha was so happy that he stopped walking.

‘Crazy……. This is definitely due to Browless’s quest… which was insanely difficult. Once it is cleared one will experience a different level of growth.

‘Agility is 473. In fact, it was not an exaggeration to say that I was able to clear it thanks to this.’

Although it was finely divided, the attack power of each iron bullet would not have been weak. Moreover, it was possible because it was faster than the golem’s movement.

However, since he discovered the new concept of crafting, Leeha thought that it was not worth it to only invest in agility.

‘If I look at the achievement of Crafting Star raising my intelligence …… It was definitely related to intelligence. To prepare for the future-.’

At least while making the shotgun bullets, Leeha knew one thing for sure.

Piercing Brown.

That ‘piercing’ was clearly related to this craft. Of course, Leeha hadn’t figured out how to do it yet.

Leeha put 16 stat points in intelligence and the remaining 66 points into agility.

Stats: Strength 61 (+46)

Agility: 539 (+144)

Intelligence: 80 (+49)

Constitution: 112 (+39)

Mind: 30 (+20)

‘Phew, good.’

He had a lighter movement, as if he could feel his footsteps getting faster.

Leeha also checked the skills he acquired through the Crafting Star achievement while groaning.


Naming… does it mean I could name things?

『Naming』

Description: You can name handmade items. If you call its name, it will come to you and have power.

Effect: The name and crafting method of the item and its effect will be registered.

Mana: 300

Cooldown: 24hours

‘Hmm, I don’t think I have seen something similar to this before’

Leeha scratched his head for a moment. It was the first time Leeha had even seen a skill without a grade and got flustered.

He thought he should just use it as it is.

Leeha opened his bag and picked up the homemade bomb.

‘I thought I had made quite a few of this, but I only have two left……”

His fierce battle with the Brass Golem came to mind.

Without this bomb, he would have failed 100%. It cost 4 silver each. It was well worth the money, without any doubt.

“Naming!”

Leeha picked up the bomb and shouted the skill.

“Hmm?”

『Skill-Naming was used.』

『Creating a name for the specified item.』

『Material analysis in progress.』

“Oh!”

Perhaps because he was holding the bomb with both hands, the skill proceeded without having to designate the specific item.

‘Hehe, what should I do? If I make it I could definitely sell it. If I name it 『Bomb Shell』 and put it up for auction, money will definitely flood in.’

Wouldn’t that be cool?

Leeha didn’t know how it might look to foreign users, but what if it was translated properly? Besides, what if Leeha was the only one who knew how to make the item?

He thought that making money would only be a matter of time.

It was the method he had been thinking of since he made the bomb.

‘Of course, someone might analyze it, so I should sell it after I have used it enough.’

After leveling up enough, Leeha planned to put the bomb on the market when he no longer needed them.

Because Leeha also knew that it was not about putting good products at the right time, but putting the right things at the right time.

Leeha waited alone with a smile.

“It’s pretty late.”

Maybe because the analysis took time. The system window appeared after a while.

And looking at the system window

Leeha couldn’t hide his .

『’Low-class 3 fuse wire’ has been named.』

“Eh?”

Fuse wire?

“Wait! What is this! You want me to name each part?”

It was certainly true that the fuse was made by Leeha himself.

“This is too much! The cooldown is 24 hours! How about the bomb? And it automatically gets its name?”

Leeha’s grand dream flew away from his grasp and into the sky.

“Okay. Middle Earth… That’s how it’s like in Middle Earth.”

Leeha will not be able to name his creation Bomb Shell anymore. And he had to wait for another 24 hours for the bomb to be named. Leeha rummaged through his bag again,

leaving his regrets behind.

‘Oh, the stone golem testicles could be sold to the general store…. This is the real harvest.’

There was only one reason why Leeha did not feel bad. It was an item from the Brass Golem.

“First 『Brass Ingot』……. I don’t know how to use this.”

It is a crafting material? It made his bag quite heavy, but Leeha could not figure out how useful .

Leeha put the Brass Ingot back into his bag and pulled another item.

“Great……“

Just looking at it is nice.

It cannot be compared to gold objects, but unlike sparkling gold, it had a subtle elegance.

『Brass Golem’s Special Kite Shield』

Defense: 410

Effect : 10% chance to cast ‘Slow’ on melee attacker upon a successful block,

+10% magic resistance,

Constitution +8

Requirements: Strength 400 or higher, agility 50 or higher, constitution 200 or higher

Description: A shield filled with the energy of the Brass Golem Tyuren. If you successfully block an attack, a weak electric current will flow through the attacker’s weapon.

Additional Effect:

Set Effect 3: Strike resistance +30%

Set Effect 4: Strike resistance +40%

Set Effect 5: Strike resistance +50%

The kite shield had the shape of an inverted water droplet.

Befitting its gigantic size and weight, its options were amazing.

‘The required strength and constitution are 400 and 200 respectively. No matter how optimized your stats are

you will still need to be at least level 100. A low-class crude musket would not be able to penetrate the defense of this shield…

The musket has a 233 attack power. And it also has a reload time of 1 minute with the Combat Assistance System turned on. ”

Does this just mean that the shield always has 400 defense?

‘It must have a higher defense because it is a special class. The average level should be 130? One had to be around level 150 to get this level of defense, but…… anyway, this is ridiculously high.’

The combination of sword and shield was the most popular job in Middle Earth. What about the exceptional additional effects?

‘If one simply looked at the +8 constitution. What eve is slow? Does that mean that there is a chance to slow 1 in 10 attacks if you defend well?’

Should I say I am lucky that it only affects melee attackers?

It’s already fraudulent enough. In this case, it is not only good for hunting monsters, but also for PVP.

And what if it is something that is good for PVP?

‘Wouldn’t the price be higher?’

Phew, Leeha barely suppressed his laughter.

How long has it been since the Kobold Eonwoldo! Now he had something like this

“I you, director-nim.”

Showing his gratitude to Browless out of the blue, Leeha headed to the auction house.

“No. Shield!”

Kijung! Kijung, a Templar, uses a sword and shield. Leeha quickly opened his friend’s window, but Kijung was logged out.

‘Oh dear, I would have sold it to him cheaply if he needed it.’

I’m sorry Kijung. What can I do when you’re not Leeha shook his head and headed back to the store. After all, he needed to search for similar items.

‘There are none.’

The Brass Golem appeared 10 days ago, did no one catch it? Leeha searched for the keyword “Brass Golem”, but nothing came up.

‘There are no similar items…… or they might have been sold. That’s too bad. I wanted to check the price for reference.’

In a sense, it was better. Leeha was lucky that he was able to set the market price! Leeha search for shields with similar stats.

Leeha kept trying to prevent himself from laughing every time he searched.

Every time he a keyword, people around him glanced at Leeha who kept “heup, heup” sound.

‘I’m going to buy a ranch instead of beef! How much do I raise the price? at least180 gold! Should I set it to 200 gold?’ Of course, it would sound ridiculous to a real rancher, but Leeha was happy. How much was 200 gold? It was 20 million won.

(To be continued…)
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‘But the money I spent one way or another was 10 gold. Scroll, potion, and gunpowder- ah! I don’t know how much it would cost to repair the Needle Gun…’

Well, the repair cost should not be more than the cost of the Spitfire he saw before.

Although his spending had increased compared to before, Leeha believed that the amount he invested would be returned as he put up the Kite Shield in the auction house.

‘180 gold as the starting price. Ah! It would be nice if the price soared to 300 gold!’

Only after registering the item while dreaming of the impossible did Leeha log out of Middle Earth.

10 days in Middle Earth time.

48 hours in real-time, but during the long adventure, Leeha’s logout time was less than 2 hours

Ahh.

“I suddenly feel tired.”

It was only natural that his tension was released and drowsiness followed. Leeha moved from his wheelchair to his bed and fell into a deep sleep.

“This is crazy. How many hours have I slept? 12 hours?”

After sleeping for 2 days in Middle Earth time, Leeha woke up.

The time difference between the game and reality was a good thing, but at the same time made it impossible to relax.

‘The quest with a time limit……. Even a little lateness in the real world would mean that it would fail.’

Fortunately, the duration of Browless’s quest was 15 days.

There were still 3 more days left in Middle Earth time, so Leeha had plenty of time.

“Keuh, mom shouldn’t be home. Huh?”

Leeha barely washed his face in a wheelchair and rummaged through the refrigerator.


Although Leeha sold the Kobold Eonwoldo and sent his mother 10 million won, the content of the refrigerator did not change much.

‘She only bought herbal medicines……. Really, she didn’t have to spare money on food.’

Fortunately, all the medicines were for Leeha himself.

Knowing that his mother loved him even more because of his legs, Leeha cheered up even more.

‘I need to earn quickly and get better soon. That’s it. I need 100 shields similar to the one I got yesterday. Assuming that he could monopolize it every time it comes out, he could earn 20,000 gold in 200 days in reality.’

It was a simple calculation that did not take into account variables such as cost of hunting, respawn time of the Brass Golem, sales fee, and probability that an actual buyer would appear.

However, wouldn’t it still be possible to earn 20,000 gold for the leg surgery within 1 year and 2 years if it took longer?

‘Phew, I am getting nervous.’

It was a hopeful fact for Leeha that such a figure was quite Leeha finished eating and moved to the computer.

It was essential to check information before accessing Middle Earth, and it was the most efficient moment of the day.

“There is no change in the ranking, hmm……. What?”

Leeha’s eyes caught a strange post in the corner of Middle Earth’s official website, as well as 3 to 4 other sites, including Middle Earth’s largest community site.

He clicked on the title of the top 8 among the top 10 of the most popular posts.

『Title: Field Boss – Brass Golem Solo Clear Video』

This is a video of hunting the field boss in Rock Mountain of Fibiel Kingdom! It is a short video, but please recommend and P. S. What’s this guy’s job?

There was a video link on YTube.

No, he could already tell without looking. If it was the Brass Golem that appears in a cycle of 10 caught the most recent Brass Golem.

“Kek, is it really me? Or is it a different user?”

Leeha looked at himself in the video. It was zoomed out appropriately for him and the Brass Golem to be captured at both ends of the video.

He could only see a dim silhouette, but the scene where the bomb was thrown, the Force Barrier was used, and the Brass Golem was caught using the shotgun was all in the video.


“Hmm…… Isn’t it pretty cool?”

That was Leeha’s honest first impression. If he had known that he would be filmed like that, he would have worn more luxurious equipment.

“No, no, no, that’s not it! Who wants to watch this video-!”

What was worse was Leeha was getting popular from other people’s videos, while he did not do anything.

There were 60,000 views, and 850 comments, including foreigners, and even now, comments still getting posted steadily.

– Is it possible to Solo the Brass Golem? What level do you have to be at?

– I don’t know, I have never done it.

– What? Did he and shield? Was he a mage? Elementalist?

But the color of the shield was different. It’s more like a priest’s barrier. Elementalist have .

So how could a priest use ? It doesn’t even make sense if he was a priest.

– So cool.

– It’s different from catching something like an orc boss. Soloing golem couldn’t be compared to it.

“Keuu..!”

He wanted to tell them to get off, but Leeha didn’t want to reveal his identity.

Above all, he was worried that the existence of the bomb getting discovered.

‘It’s nice that they think it was cool, but… it would be better to leave it alone.’

To go on a different path from others, Leeha had to avoid standing out.

The rarer the item was, the higher its value would be.

“Huh?”

His phone rang. Leeha answered the call as soon as Leeha saw the caller.


“Hello, how are you doing, master Kay!”

– Hyung! This video is crazy! What is it?! How did you do it? Was it an item? Skill?

“What video?”

– You thought I didn’t know? Did you spend money?

Kijung’s voice continuously flowed out. His cry seemed to have already confirmed that it was Leeha.

“How did you know?”

– It’s not that I recognized you – you idiot! No one else had caught the Brass Golem, but there’s a Brass Golem shield on the auction house! In your name!

“Oh? Ah, is that so?!”

He only heard of it from Kijung. In fact, Leeha didn’t even know that a video like this would become a hot topic, but he didn’t have time to think about it.

‘Is it going to be a problem?’

No, he could just remove it.

It would be okay to say that he acquired that item, and he could use other excuses. However, even if he took it off the auction, he still had to pay the fee.

It was better if he left it alone until it was sold.

“How did he ? Was he buying a new weapon?”

– It’s crazy…… How did you do it? You didn’t spend money, did you?

“Haha, what are you talking about?. Where would I get money for that?”

– R-right? But how did you do it? Please tell me!

As soon as I saw the video, I got curious and jumped!

Listening to Kijung’s awestruck voice with pleasure, Leeha talked about what happened.

Splitting the iron bullets into shotgun bullets, making bombs, the Crafting Star, and Naming skill, etc.

Leeha could see Kijung’s expression because they were talking on the phone, but he could guess just by listening to Kijung’s exclamations.

– That’s amazing, hyung……. You seem more like an expert than me. Crafting? It’s not something I would have thought of, because I only use what was dropped by monsters.

“I really am more of an expert than you.”

– Haha, that kind of joke makes me feel good, you have improved a lot.

“Do you need the shield? If necessary, even with the fee, I can give it to you for cheap.”

The joke that Leeha was better than Kijung did not even last for a few seconds.

– I think it would be good for PVP, but my shield is better.

“I-is that so?”

A better shield than something that’s worth at least 180 gold. It was expected of a semi-ranker.

How much was that shield? Leeha barely held back his question.

– Anyways, nice talking to you, hyung! The day that you and I will be in the same party is near, isn’t it?

“I told you. I will be chasing you soon.”

– Haha, I should run away quickly. I’m logging in now! Pop!

“Okay, see you in Middle Earth! Ah! Don’t tell anyone that-.”

– I know, I know, who will I tell it to? Anyway, anyone who knows you would know just by watching the video. Especially since there’s no other job that has that kind of shooting posture. Okay, bye!

Ttut, ttut. Kijung replied like he knew what Leeha would say, and hung up the phone.

‘Well, that’s true.’

Besides, even someone who didn’t know Leeha would have guessed if their brain worked like Kijung’s. Through the item search of the auction house.

‘Well, it’s not like something troublesome happened right away. I should log in for now.’

Leeha closed the browser and approached the virtual reality connector.

He did not know what kind of comments posted on the video he was in.

– Video uploader, where did you see this bastard? Tell me the date and location where you saw him. Please send me a message.

‘It hasn’t been sold yet…… the highest bid is 188 gold. This is great.’

Except for the immediate sale function, it was only used purely for auction.

The auction period was one week, Middle Earth time. It was only a little more than a day in reality, so it wouldn’t have been sold yet.

He stopped by the blacksmith, but when he heard the depressing news that the repair cost was four gold, he went back to the academy.

‘I-If sold. I will fix you, needle Gun. I’m sorry!’

He didn’t even have 4 gold to spare. His auctioned item was waiting to be sold for 188 gold, but he couldn’t even use 4 gold.

‘My poor item.’

Still, his footsteps were not heavy.

Creak, Leeha who arrived at the academy shouted.

“I’m here, director-nim!”

“Did you have fun?”

“It was fun-…… Haha, it was more fun than the director-nim said.”

Although he wasn’t able to catch a stone golem and almost died on the first day, Leeha did not show any sign of it at all.

With a pounding heart, Leeha stood in front of Browless.

“You did a good job. You also have talent.”

“You’re exaggerating. It is thanks to the director-nim’s teachings.”

As he held out his hands, a pleasant sound rang out.

Babam-!

『 You have completed Accuracy Improvement Training-1: What you can’t see from afar quest. 』

『 You have acquired 30 silver. 』

『 You have acquired the skill Eagle Eyes. 』

‘Yes, this is it.’

Leeha was curious ever since he first saw it. Eagle’s Eye. Just by looking at the name, one could guess what it really was.

Besides, 30 silver as a reward? Compared to when Browless gave 1 or 2 silver, it was a huge amount of money.

‘It must have been really difficult.’

After shaking hands, Browless smiled when he saw Leeha standing still.

He liked his disciple’s unobtrusive attitude.

“You couldn’t see it from afar, did you?”

“Yes? Ah, yes. Yes. You could never see a golem’s testicle from afar.”

“Testicles?”

It was only after Browless tilted his head did Leeha realize.

Testicle was a name that only used. NPCs did not call it that!

“I-it’s the golem’s condensed mana- “

“Hmm, you like weird expressions. I didn’t see it like that.”

“N-no! It’s not-.”

“Anyway, it’s okay. If you like testicles, then so be it.”

What do you mean, director-nim?!

Without even listening to Leeha’s cry, Browless continued.

“I entrusted you with this task to let you know. Anyway, our job is sniping. It is necessary to predict a number of situations. Like something you won’t be able to see from a distance.”

Is he saying that I needed to do this to prepare for becoming a sniper? Leeha caught a strange nuance from Browless.

“Then this time……”

“Yes, that’s right.”

A quest window appeared in front of Leeha.

However, the fact that two windows appeared made him worry.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 110

				
Translated by: xLordFifth

Edited by: Spitfirus

『 Accuracy Enhancement Training – 2: Sniper and Hunter 』

Description: ‘Do you know the secret of sniping? We are different from hunters. There’s no need for long words. You will find out when you catch this guy.’

Browless wants you to be reborn as a true sniper. Not as a hunting musketeer, but a true sniper.

Content: Obtain Road Runner’s tail feather within 20 days (0 / 5)

Reward: Skill: Marking

Condition for Failure: Exceed deadline, party play

Penalty for failure: 『 Accuracy Enhancement Training 』 will disappear, 『 Miss Elizabeth’s Will 』 will disappear, 『 Disappeared Legends 』 will be canceled, 『 Browless’s Expectations 』 will be canceled, Quest route will reset.

– Are you sure you want to accept?

Leeha quickly scanned the first notification window.

Hunting? Sniping? What is this all of a sudden?

‘There’s a deadline, but… death won’t result in failure this time. What is a Roadrunner in the first place?’

During the Brass Golem quest, it was described as the field boss…

If so, does this mean that the quest monster was not a boss-level monster?

Was it just another monster? Was ‘death’ excluded from the conditions because the system knew that he would not die from normal monsters?

“What is a roadrunner?”

“It’s a bird.”

“Bird? Ah, yes. I know that…… Is it similar to the Golden Eagle in Candle Castle?”

“Yes. It’s a flying bird. However, if you compare it to the Golden Eagle, the Golden Eagle would be sad.”


A corner of Browless’s mouth twisted. Just looking at Browless’s smirk, Leeha had an ominous feeling.

‘If you compared the two kinds of birds, shouldn’t the road runner be sad? Why would the Golden Eagle be sad?’

Even though it was from the beginner area, the Golden Eagle is strong in its way.

Of course, only level 10 to 15 users deal with it, so it would not be a big deal if one was strong…….

“Anyway, it’s simple. Bring 5 roadrunners’ tail feathers within 20 days. Of course, you know that it shouldn’t be a store-bought item, right?”

“O-Of course. What do you think of me as?”

Leeha knew that it wouldn’t be simple. But how comfortable was it that there was no death penalty? Compared to what he had to deal with the Brass Golem alone, it seemed easy, even though he didn’t know what a roadrunner was.

Leeha pressed the accept button without hesitation.

The second notification window was the reward for the first quest.

However, its ridiculous content made Leeha’s mouth wide open.

『 Miss Elizabeth’s Will (Legacy) 』 Description: ‘I couldn’t even match her accuracy. She used to pull the trigger at a distance where it was difficult to even tell what the color of the clothes was with the naked eye. It reminds me of the time when she yelled that there would be someone to succeed me and Brown, but there would be no one to succeed her. If there was someone who could pass this test, she said that it would be okay for them to be her successor.’

The Three Musketeers have high expectations for their successors. And they prepared tests in advance for their successors. Browless wants you to take the test that Miss Elizabeth mentioned before her disappearance.

Content: Hit the target at a distance of 444m (Chances: 3, hit: 0/1）

Reward: Black Bass, achievement – The Next Generation of the Three Musketeers

Condition of Failure: Miss the target.

Failure: 『 Miss Elizabeth’s Will 』 will disappear.

“And Miss Elizabeth’s Will……”

Browless paused and cleared his voice.

“It literally means what it is. Since she is not dead, the expression “will” is not appropriate, but I can only express it like this.”

Browless tried to follow Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth toward the Demon King’s Country.


How did he feel when he treated them as dead and learned that they were alive.

Leeha tried to guess what was on Browless’s mind for a moment but eventually shook his head.

Leeha thought it was still difficult to really understand Browless.

“Their successor…… I don’t know if Brown and Elizabeth had even ‘thought’ about it beforehand. Anyway, I have talked about it to them before.”

Browless’s eyes seemed to be looking into the past.

Leeha also understood the director’s words.

‘If I hit the target at a distance of 444m…… I will be acknowledged as her successor.’

“I need to hit the target at 444m you say?”

“Yes. At a distance of 444m, no more, no less.”

That’s nonsense! Leeha barely managed to hold back his scream.

What kind of distance was 444m in Middle Earth?

‘Is this for real! What was the effective range of a musket? No, besides that, what do you mean, it should be neither more nor less than 444m! Without an optical rangefinder!’

Although he had never met Miss Elizabeth, Leeha seemed to have a rough idea of her personality.

‘The reward for catching the Brass Golem is totally crazy.

It is supposed to be good, but I couldn’t be happy with this.’

“W-what is the size of the target? Where would it be? Is it moving?”

“The target should be… roughly the size of an adult male. The place is prepared by me separately.”

“Do I have to do it now?”

In response to Leeha’s question, Browless shook his head.

He had three chances to hit the target once, that he could shoot three times.


Fortunately, ‘going to challenge’ meant that Leeha could do it anytime he wanted to.

‘The worst has come to pas, for now. Besides, I can take my time before doing it. It’s just a quest that I had inherited.’

The tempting names written on the reward were something else.

‘I am already doing the quest to be a part of the next generation of Three Musketeers. But if I clear this I can get the achievement of Next Generation of the Three Musketeers?’

Does it mean that as long as I don’t clear this quest, I won’t be able to be a part of the next generation of the Three Musketeers even if I finish all the quests given to me by Browless?

If so, it was no exaggeration to say that this was the most important quest.

“What is the Black Bass?”

“You know it.”

“What?”

Browless raised his chin as if to pretend he did not know anything.

His chin was pointed to the wall of the storage room.

“S-surely……?”

It was the wall between the windows.

There was nothing special. There was a mark that symbolizes the academy, and a three-tiered hanger.

However, there was an object in the second tier of the hanger.

It was as Browless said. It was something Leeha knew of.

“It’s the gun that Miss Elizabeth used.”

“Whoa……!”

It was a black musket of unknown material.

Wasn’t that Browless’s? the gun used by Miss Elizabeth?

One gun, two empty hangers. Leeha’s mind started to grind.

“T-then? The top and bottom it was where-.”

“You have a good eye.”

“-Mister Brown…. and yours?”

And they were not on the hangers anymore.

‘T-the next generation of the Three Musketeers. You have to inherit their skills too! So…… that’s why he kept on insisting ‘accuracy’ on me.’

Now the puzzle been put together.

From the moment Leeha first came, he was always asked to choose and he almost got fed up with it. Piercing, bullseye, rapid fire.

‘The next generation! To create the next generation of the Three Musketeers…… there needs to be 1 person for each attribute?’

It was not possible to have two for each attribute.

How can it be possible, when there was only one gun at a time. It was just that the guns of Mister Brown and Browless were no longer available.

“Are you going to try it now?”

Leeha’s heart pounded. It was greed. He could tell that the musket was unusual even without looking closely at it.

“No. I can’t do it right now.”

“Ha…… haha, right. Of course.”

But Leeha was cool headed and his heart was burning.

He knew that trying it right now would result in failure. Looking at Browless’s satisfied smile, Leeha knew that not taking the test now was the right answer.

“Then you can tell me whenever you want to.”

“Okay. I need to catch road runners first.”

“I wish you luck.”

Leeha said goodbye to Browless and left the Academy.

His heart still pounded.

After restocking gunpowder and bullets, Leeha quickly logged out of Middle Earth and collected information about the roadrunner from the internet.

‘Manhwa? Ah! From an old cartoon…’

Images of famous cartoon characters appeared.

A bird in the shape of an ostrich. He remembered hearing the story of it playing around with a coyote as if they were playing tag.

‘And this bird actually exists……. Hmm, it looks like this. It doesn’t look like an ostrich’

The cartoon character was also inspired by a real bird.

Is it the same size as a pigeon? A cute-looking bird appeared in the search bar.

“And I’m supposed to catch this in Middle Earth.”

That’s why he said that the Golden Eagle would be sad if I compared the roadrunner to it.

Comparing it to the big, ferocious ones that eat people’s eyeballs, the roadrunner was truly a ‘bird’.

There were not many discussions about the roadrunner in the community either.

In the first place, it felt like it was not a monster made for hunting.

‘What is that bird? Could I catch it? There’s fire coming from its back. What was he talking about?’

The titles with screenshots are just that. Unfortunately, none of the road runners were properly photographed.

After figuring out its accurate location through the screenshot, Leeha connected to Middle Earth again.

“If I look at the map, it is clear that here ……

It is a desert area, not a grassland area.

It is in a canyon where sand and dust flew.

Nearby users were catching monsters such as Scorpion and sidewinders as a party.

The monsters that one could catch were around level 40, this place was where Leeha felt most while doing his quest.

‘I always completed the quest in a hunting ground higher than my level … this time, death would not result in failure.’

He could smell the quest taking a break.

“Catch him! Catch him!”

“Please give me those heels! Stomp”

The archer, next please!”

Even by just looking at their equipment, users who were not fully equipped yet.

The division of roles was done well in its own way, and she stably held the scorpion, but.

It was laughable to Leeha.

“I had a time like that too- I ……? No. I did not.”

When was the last time he played in a party? He couldn’t even remember.

(To be continued…)
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Middle Earth was definitely a game that encouraged and forced party play.

‘Except for Biyemi and I were on the Marching Plains…… The last time I was in a party was when I caught kobolds Mount Seymour.’

That was the first and last time Leeha was in a party with a tank, healer, and dealer.

Because when he was with the Venomancer Biyemi and the Giant Druid Jin Gonggong, their party did not consist of Tank-Healer-Dealer.

“Well, this is what it means to walk a different path from others- hmm?”

He could see dust rising from the edge of the wasteland, Leeha even felt disappointed. It didn’t seem to be a natural wind.

W-What? Sandstorm?

A huge amount of sand dust moved from Leeha’s left and right view.

What was it?

“Roadrunner!”

“Ah, if only that bastard did not appear, I would not have to take a break from hunting ……

Hearing the grumbling noise from the , Leeha’s ears perked.

‘T-That’s…… a roadrunner?’

Leeha grabbed his musket and ran. He ran in the direction where the sand and dust rose, but…… It was not a speed that he could pursue.

“What is that?”

It was only when the already rising sun and dust subsided that Leeha arrived at the location.

Of course, it was after the roadrunner was so far away that he could not even see it.

‘I have to… catch that? Five?’


He didn’t know what to do. Fortunately, it left a mark.

Leeha began to follow the footprints left on the ground.

Its size was definitely small. It looks a little like chicken’s feet.’

The weight could be estimated by looking at the size of the foot and the depth of the footprint.

Of course, he hadn’t looked at the screenshot properly, but it won’t be huge.

For Middle Earth, which raised wolves to the size of a calf, it was a fair amount of consideration(?).

“I-Is it that?”

How far did he walk?

Leeha followed its footsteps and ran through the wasteland for a long time, and finally found the roadrunner.

“Great……. It’s rather unfortunate because it’s small.”

It would have been better to have a bigger target.

Leeha carefully opened his bag.

It was a little bigger than a pigeon, but definitely the size of a regular bird. It almost felt like a little pheasant.

And if it’s a pheasant? It’s the best bird for ‘hunters’ to hunt.

‘Reload complete. Let’s get this guy’s tailfeather first and get the next one.

His gaze was low. It was hard to shoot the little bird while standing up.

Their distance was about 50m.

Leeha slowly bent down and took a shooting posture.

What?

“Eh?”


The moment he kneeled, Leeha’s eyes met with the little bird’s.

Back?

Its neck was bent and it tilted its head. Leeha had a hard time swallowing his saliva. Don’t escape, don’t escape.

Get back!

“Waaaa!! No!!”

Pababababak-!

As soon as it turned around, dust rose.

It had unbelievable strength for such a small body!

Leeha jumped and took a shooting pose on his knee.

‘Damn it! Its eyes were so fast’

Barely aiming his musket through the dust, Leeha pulled the trigger.

Bang!

Leeha knew even before the gunshot went off.

He knew that in the place where it was standing, only the bullet would remain.

“I know now, at 50m……. it would notice me.”

Clack, Leeha tightened the musket’s shoulder straps again.

It was its mistake to leave footprints.

‘I will follow you until you shed tears of blood.’

After all, Leeha was someone with unlimited stamina. Compared to the thousand li march, it’s easy to track down.’

Leeha confidently began to follow in its footsteps.


Leeha couldn’t have imagined that the chase would take more than three days.

“Ah, damn it!. Please stop.”

Leeha sat down near the road. Middle Earth’s sun rose, set, and rose again.

He wasted so much time that he grind his teeth thinking about it. It meant that he had been chasing it for more than half a day in reality.

‘This is crazy. There are only 17 days left and I haven’t gotten a single feather!’

It wasn’t like he couldn’t help it. There were footprints, but no matter how hard he pursued, he couldn’t find it.

He couldn’t even see its shadow since he missed the roadrunner at 50m that day!

There wasn’t even any food.

“Should I make something to eat?”.

While he was looking for ingredients, Leeha caught sight of dust rising.

‘Roadrunner!’

Leeha quickly stood up.

『Energy has been reduced to 40%. Penalty will be applied when it gets to 30% or less.』

‘I’m going to eat that bastard.’

It was Leeha’s honest feeling right now that he could eat it alive.

Its distance was quite far. And even now, the roadrunner was getting further away.

‘I won’t chase you. I’m such an idiot, what did I catch the Brass Golem for!’

He even blamed himself. If he had thought of this in the first place, there was no need to approach within 50m.

Leeha bent knee and went to shooting posture.

The sand dust was generated at a distance of 200 to 250m and was currently moving.

“The wind speed had to be taken into account. I have to do it right this time.”

His muzzle aimed at the fast-moving object 200m away.

It was a situation where there were no changes in Leeha’s threatening words.

“Eagle’s eye.”

The skill he acquired by hunting the Brass Golem was activated.

“Ah! It is too magnified!”

If one looked from the side, one would think of him as an idiot.

He squeezed the musket’s butt plate, closed his eyes, and sat down. However, if one knew what Leeha’s sight was like, one would not make fun of him.

He was literally looking through the ‘Eagle’s Eye’.

Who wouldn’t be surprised to see the running roadrunner’s leg muscles twitch before their eyes?

‘The duration is one minute, with a 1-hour cooldown. The field of view can be enlarged or reduced within 500m range.’

How would one feel when they first tested it?

Leeha still wasn’t accustomed to it, but the ability to instantly magnify one’s vision without needing a pair of glasses was definitely surprising.

‘I have to reduce it more. It doesn’t have to look this large. Reduce, reduce.’

High magnification wasn’t necessarily a good thing.

If it was enlarged too much, it would be difficult to observe the target’s movement, and even small movements would cause one’s vision to shake greatly, making it more difficult to aim.

Adjusting the magnification according to the target’s size and distance was the beauty of this skill.

‘It doesn’t have crosshairs, and you could think of it as an aiming scope. The crosshair should be the musket’s gauge as it is.’

Some people only used it for search and reconnaissance, but not for Leeha.

It’s nothing like a sniper scope for an accurate shot.

‘Target on, distance still increasing at 220m. I don’t have time.’

It was even faster when zoomed in.

Its short legs were constantly moving with great power, so that kind of dust was bound to rise. The roadrunner continued to advance 2 o’clock of Leeha.

‘Now.’

Click, Leeha pulled the trigger.

Bang-!

A thunderous gunshot rang. Leeha stopped at his posture.

After all the white smoke had disappeared, Leeha laid on his back.

“You, you crazy bastard!!! If you get hit, it’ll get worse! Where do you think you’re going!”

Leeha’s struggling figure was pathetic.

He was like that because no one was around.

“Why don’t you fly! If you flew, it would be less unfair! Why are you running on the ground! Damned bird! Damned bird bastard–!!!”

He had screamed for a long time.

Leeha, who had hit the floor and cursed at a bird that was about 50cm in size, was able to regain rationality because of the notification window.

『Vitality has been reduced to less than 30%. Penalty has been applied.』

『HP, mP, and Stamina will not recover.』

“Ahh……. I’m going crazy.”

Leeha felt like he had to do what he had to do.

“Hmm, I should still enjoy cooking.”

On his third night in Middle Earth, after the sun rose, it had been four days since Leeha started chasing the roadrunner.

It meant that Leeha had spent almost a day in reality and he hadn’t caught a single one yet.

Leeha drew water from the surroundings, put it in a pot, and stared blankly at the sky.

‘Eagle’s Eye.’

He raised his musket towards the birds flying 40 meters above the ground.

‘I wonder if it’s a roadrunner. It’s just a normal animal.’

It was enlarged anyway, so he could see it well, but he still had to make sure.

Leeha turned his skill to 1x, then went through his bag and reloaded his musket.

‘『 Grapeshot 』, what is grapeshot? Leeha tried naming the shotgun bullets using the Naming skill. Since it was used for a shotgun, he didn’t expect a name like splash shot, but simpler names like buckshot or slug ……

However, he still got a name he didn’t like.

Grapeshot.

Leeha put the grapeshot, made from splitting iron bullets into the musket’s muzzle.

It was an arduous posture of having to lift his musket from a standing position to a shooting posture into the sky, however, Leeha did not shake at all.

Bang–!

The grapeshot was much louder than a normal shot, and a bird fell.

Leeha picked up the bird, poured hot water on it, and ripped off its .

The thing he improved the most while playing Middle Earth was preparing food, so Leeha wondered if it was more of a cooking thing than hunting.

‘Well, it’s easier to hunt if I use grapeshot.’

Even the grapeshot did not work for the roadrunner who was running on the ground with a small body.

Many bullets were lodged in the ground while it escaped.

‘Even grapeshot doesn’t work. To chase again, I don’t know when or where it would pop out next. Even if it appears, I will have to chase it for a few days.’

It will be the fourth day soon. Will he be able to get tail feathers in 16 days?

Leeha was anxious.

‘If you are a sniper, you need to know how to hit a moving target. I also had that kind of training but……‘

Leeha thought while eating the roasted bird leg.

What was the purpose of the quest?

It would be too much if the goal was movement training. It’s not about being hard.

If one could not see the target in the first place, how would you shoot?

‘So that’s why the Headmaster laughed so hard. Phew, damn it. From the moment I saw that smile, I was anxious’

Thinking of Browless’s laugh, Leeha got more annoyed. He must have expected him to suffer this much.

Besides, the fact that Leeha thought it was an easy quest this time, but was not made his insides boil.

“Phew, nothing happen if I stay still. I should take a look around. I’ll just have to sleep.”

After finishing the remaining meat, Leeha logged out.

(To be continued…)
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After Leeha took a break in reality and logged back in, a day had already passed in Middle Earth time.

It was the evening of the 5th day after starting the quest. In other words, he only had 15 days left.

‘It is 20 days in Middle Earth, it means 4 days in real-time. I could do it while reducing sleep, but… If you just oversleep, or have an unexpected situation, 3 days will fly away in an instant.’

‘Heup, this, it should be fine since I don’t go out.’

Leeha could earn money by catching boss monsters, but he knew that if other users strong enough, more people would make Middle Earth their main job.

It could save time, and there’s a high chance jackpot in terms of making money.

‘I like the Brass Golem, but there’s no need to do that kind of hard work. The higher I go, the better items would come out, so becoming an expert is the fastest way.’

Besides, Leeha didn’t know when the next chance to monopolize it would come.

Leeha only knew when the right appear.

“Well then, let’s start again.”

Leeha followed the roadrunner’s footprints once again.

As he was about to pursue the trail, he saw dust rising from the distance.

“Huh?”

It appeared as soon as I connected? Besides, the direction was familiar.

“Q-quick!”

Leeha started reloading.

It was visible in the distance, but its speed was slow. Leeha clearly remembered seeing it.

‘No way.’


Leeha finished reloading and ran quickly.

His main purpose was to reduce their distance, but at the same time, he wanted to take a look at the roadrunner

“Haa, haa.”

He jumped on the nearby rock.

The ground shattered as the bird kicked its feet. Leeha didn’t know if it was the same bird he saw last time, but it did not matter right now.

‘That road, that route……’

Leeha slowly leaned against the rock. It was obvious.

It looked like it was running in a straight line

but it turned slightly left before going straight again. And after running for a while, it turned right and ran again.

It wasn’t distinguishable from a distance.

He was able to see the roadrunner’s 『Path』 because he used the Eagle’s Eye.

‘Eagle’s Eye.’

Leeha adjusted the magnification and pressed the musket’s butt to his shoulder.

‘Let’s see…… After going straight for another 80m-.’

The roadrunner was visible to him. The distance? Wind direction? Wind speed?

‘It’s okay. It’s the same as before. I already feel it. Calm Mind.’

The first moment it turned to the left. At the same time as the skill activated, Leeha’s index finger moved.

Bang——!

A celebratory sound was heard.

Babam-!


『 Achievement: You can’t see me! (B-) 』

Congratulations! You can’t be seen 200m away. Feel free to shoot, the enemy won’t even know who you are.

Effect : Strength +4, agility +9

You are the third registrant of the achievement 『 You can’t see me』 .

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect : Strength +8, agility +18

The first thought that came to Leeha’s mind before joy was ‘as expected’.

He instinctively knew the path it would take, after chasing it for 2 days.

“3 people in 100m. And 3 people in 200m.”

So what about 300m? Did they already succeed? Leeha shook his head and brushed off his thoughts.

He would think about it later. What he needed to do now was to pick up the roadrunner’s tail feather 200m away.

“Phew……. But what is wrong with this guy?”

Looting the item from the little bird lying down on the ground, Leeha felt something was off.

Why? The forest he was in was far from the wasteland.

This was the place he found the roadrunner was at after several days of pursuit.

Wasn’t the roadrunner’s main location the wasteland? It was a desert-like place with canyons, rocks, and sand.

‘I came here after following it, but…. Wasn’t it like it had been waiting here? Will it be going back to the wasteland from now on-.’

Huh?

A thought suddenly came to Leeha’s mind.

Road? Route?


‘No, wait. This quest……. Now I realize…… I first thought the purpose of the quest was to shoot a fast-moving target. Of course, I can, but how come I feel something is wrong?’

Leeha opened the quest window to check the name of the quest.

『 Accuracy Enhancement Training – 2: Sniper and Hunter 』

And he focused on the description.

Do you know the secret of sniping? The beauty of sniping is not shooting fast-moving targets. Rather, it is like hunting.

When the target makes little movement, the most fun part is the thrill of escaping after hitting the target and turning the place into a battlefield.

‘Ahh-! That’s right!’

That’s why it’s hunting! That’s it!

“Hahaha, director Browless-nim, you’re a complete scammer! No, Middle Earth is a scammer.”

It was a trap! Leeha was able to see the trap of this quest.

“Okay, I have 15 days. Great.”

Leeha quickly unfolded his map.

The road between the capital and the wasteland, where he was currently at, and the roads of the wasteland, and the nearby roads.

After checking all the information he remembered on the map, Leeha started moving again.

“I should prepare to snipe.”

Leeha began to wait for his next target with a clear mind.

Bang–! Ehihihi!

The startled horse roughly neighed.

“Whoa, whoa.”

His face was covered with a helmet, so his expression could not be seen, but just hearing his voice, one could tell that the knight wasn’t flustered.

Even when the horse he rode ran wildly, he simply stroked its mane slowly, and the body of the knight was not disturbed in the slightest.

“It’s okay, it’s okay.”

After stroking the horse’s mane for a while, it calmed down.

‘What is that sudden gunshot? Is there a musketeer nearby?

This was not a place for hunting,

a transport road, and there were no users who here because it was not a good hunting ground.

There would be at most some warriors who come here to dig in order to raise their carpentry skills.

‘There is no way a musketeer can do carpentry. This should be fun.’

The knight was somewhat curious.

His quest took a long time, but he still had a lot of time.

‘He’s unlikely to be in a place like this, but if he’s a musketeer, he might know…

The knight thought for a moment.

Pururuk, puruk-!

As if it knew what his master thought, the horse turned its head.

“Done……“

Phew, Leeha took a deep breath. He had been on the rock for five Middle Earth days.

“Heuuuuk!”

After stretching, Leeha got the fifth tail feather! He finally completed the condition for Browless’s quest.

‘The thrill of sniping, haha, sniping and hunting.’

Leeha thought about the day he got his first tail feather.

The roadrunner had habits. It was said that one roadrunner would run through the forest at a time.

From the moment it spawned, it traveled through the desert and wasteland, and always stopped at the forest in the evening.

‘The time limit was 20 days. And the hints in the quest window.’

Perhaps there was another way.

However, Leeha was convinced that this was the clearing method that Browless wanted.

‘I was wrong from the start. I thought it was a normal monster, and I chased after it.’

That was a trap.

Tracking was what hunters did. The beauty of hunting was tracking.

So what about sniping? It was waiting. Waiting.

Both professions take information about the target but process that information differently.

‘The most appropriate time to shoot a target was when there is the least variable.’

Obviously, even on the wasteland, it would have run only on specific routes.

However, there was no need to go to another place since Leeha knew that there was the least amount of dust when the roadrunner ran along the forest road or when it changed its direction while running.

All that remained was to pull the trigger while the target was at its easiest point to shoot.

The quest inevitably required time because of the waiting, not the difficulty of hunting.

‘Was that the reason why the time limit was 20 days?’

That must have been the reason why I was given more time than when I went to catch the Brass Golem.

Middle Earth certainly gave hints from the very beginning. It was a bit disappointing to find out after all I have gone through.

“Well, it isn’t too late~ Phew. ”

Leeha opened his map again.

It needed a day’s walk to get to the capital. In reality, it would have been exhausting, but in Middle Earth, it was nothing.

Anyway, when Leeha completed the quest he still had 11 days left, so there was no need to rush at all.

If it wasn’t for the voice he heard from behind.

“Hey!”

“Hmm?”

“Found you……. Haha, I found you. Ha Leeha.”

There were approximately ten people in front of Leeha.

The people in front of him were wearing black hoods, so Leeha couldn’t see their faces, but he could tell that they were up to no good.

“Who are you?”

“Where did you get that ring?”

“Ring?”

Leeha turned his hand, pretending not to know.

He also secretly took out a reload set from his bag.

An unknown hood, a ring, and a group.

With only these words, he could guess who they were.

‘So that video…… damn it. Damned bastard.’

It was too late now. He cursed the user who uploaded the Brass Golem video but he had already been caught.

Their hoods and cloaks fluttered as they clenched their teeth.

Their appearance was shown. And an image of a Rising Sun was proudly embedded in their chests, shields, and helmets.

“Where do you think you are going, you bastard? Give it to me! It’s really expensive!”

“Ha Leeha! You bastard thought I wouldn’t find you?!”

“Hey! Where did Biyemi go? Tell us, you bastard!” They were people from the Rising Sun.

(To be continued…)
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‘Tikal, Petal Kim…… and the others are the ones who came to the Marching Plains?’

Leeha didn’t know their names. However, their faces were familiar.

Out of the 10 Rising Sun members, Leeha immediately recognized the three in front.

Of course, he knew why they came here.

“Haha, I’m sorry, but isn’t this over? It’s not nice to do these kinds of things now…“

“Are you kidding me? Over? Your life ends today, you bastard.”

Petal Kim’s eyes flared. Leeha took a quick scan of Petal Kim’s items.

‘He could only get those items from Rising Sun? Well, his value should have fallen a lot……’

It must have been difficult for Petal Kim to receive support from the Rising Sun guild, who was the reason for the massacre of Rising Sun guild members in the Kobold Village.

He was even fortunate that he didn’t get kicked out.

‘And Tikal was already in his late 60s at that time. I should be close to his level now.’

‘If I remember correctly, he has Ghibrid dealer-tank job.’

Tikal was a middle aged user which had fancier items than before.

After being beaten by Hijuit-Ka, Leeha thought Tikal wouldn’t be able to make a comeback, however, it seemed that they poured more money into him.

‘The guy who came to the Marching Plains was also in his mid 60’s. He must have been over 70. He shouldn’t have made it to 80.’

Not much time had passed.

Leeha massacred stone golems and soloed the Brass Golem raid, and it was a blast, but they won’t be able to do that.

‘In other words, the 10 people gathered here don’t really know my level. It would be difficult to guess by looking at my items. And I didn’t really change anything other than my musket. If I exclude Tikal and the Marching Plains guy, their level should be lower than mine.’


That was Leeha’s judgement. He was not the beginner musketeer that didn’t know anything anymore.

Leeha’s quick guess was almost accurate.

“What are you snickering at? Do you want me to split your head? Fucking bastard…… If you give me your ring and all your equipment, I will spare your life.”

“Tikal-hyungnim. There is that too.”

“Ah! That’s right. The item that the Brass Golem dropped. The shield that you put in the auction house, give that to me too.”

Peuk-!

While Tikal was speaking, a user behind him tore a scroll.

Seeing the light purple color spreading through the air, Leeha bit his lip.

‘Damn it! I shouldn’t have observed them, I should have used the return scroll immediately.’

Now he was not able to return.

Seeing the guy from the Marching Plains, he fell for it again. As soon as he saw the Rising Sun, he should have torn a return scroll, went to a nearby village, and taken the warp gate.

“Hahaha, idiot, did you think that we wasted our time talking for nothing? Guys!”

Tikal was still an action leader. With one word from him, even the guild members who had higher levels than him prepared for battle.

“Crazy bastards…… Did the ten of you come here just to catch me? You’re so cowardly, you can’t even do one-on-one!”

Leeha moved towards the Rising Sun members. And he whispered to someone.

– Kijung, come to me as soon as you see my location. The Rising Sun guild members came to catch me. Quick. Please. There are 10 people around level 50 to 60. I can’t run away.

– What! Okay. It will take some time.

Leeha didn’t know if he was being fair or not, but in any case, Leeha quickly whispered to Kijung and grabbed his musket .

“Talking one-on-one. Didn’t you take the boss mob before?”

“Not only that hyungnim. That bastard also has a lizard friend and a strange one-armed swordsman. They are strong.”


The user who suffered in Marching Plains was especially wary of the surroundings.

When he thought of the day when he was helpless against Lepanto, he felt so scared that he could barely sleep.

While the Rising Sun members shouted their own reasons, Leeha carefully lifted his arms to calm them down.

“Okay, I understand. I will return the ring, so how about ending this today?”

“Haha, that was originally mine, you bastard! It’s only natural for me to get it back! You have to spit out everything you have-”

Clang!

Leeha’s arm moved like lightning. Delicate Hand Movement and Calm Mind!

Bang–!

The muzzle was aimed at Tikal’s forehead! It was far from being fair, but it wasn’t important.

He only carried out the best strategy for survival.

Bang-!

However, the bullet that flew accurately did not penetrate the double shield and bounced off.

“I knew it, you bastard. I have been watching you since earlier.”

“Haha, that crazy bastard, that……. Aren’t you a complete villain? Well done, Petal Kim.”

“Thank you, hyungnim.”

Tikal looked at Leeha with a puzzled expression, but his face soon began to contort with anger.

“Call five more guild members at the nearest village from here. Today, that bastard will get killed endlessly. Kill him!”

At Tikal’s shout, two arrows flew, but Leeha dodged.

‘Damn-it!’

Hwik, he barely dodged the two arrows and reloaded.


There were two ranged dealers and the rest were melee dealers.

It could be said that he was fortunate that there were no mages.

‘No, it’s actually worse now.’

Except for Tikal and the ranged damage dealers, the seven users narrowed their distance in an instant.

It took less than 10 seconds, and no matter how fast Leeha was, it was too much for him to reload at that time.

Ududuk, Leeha put his hand in his.

“Double Slash!”

“Penetrate!”

The dual sword wielding warrior and two-handed sword warrior rushed in at the same time.

It was immediately clear that the energy in their swords were not too strong.

‘Damn, if you want to come, come all at once!’

Because ‘this’ works well with crowds.

Leeha’s hand came out of his bag, and went the air.

Chiiii ——!

It was something the Rising Sun guild members had seen for the first time, but just by looking at its appearance and the small flame burning at the end of the fuse, they could tell what ‘it’ was.

“What the heck?!”

Kwaaang-!

The 『 Low-class Improvised Explosive 』 exploded, covering the screams of the two warriors.

The bomb was able to melt the chest of the Brass Golem.

Much less the face of human beings caught up in the explosion. The bodies of the two flew back and turned gray instantly.

‘Two. It’s a bummer, but it’s okay.’

Leeha immediately reloaded. The moment they panicked after seeing the bomb.

“Ex… plosion? Magic?”

“Heol…… Explosion- no. Who…… how?”

They didn’t believe it after seeing the video.

It was a solo raid, but they believed there must have been a mage hiding somewhere.

But there was no mage right now!

“What are you idiots doing! All you have to do is cut off that bastard’s hands and feet and ask him about it later! Charge!”

Shwik, shwik!

Tikal’s scream and two arrows were thrown out at the same time.

Only then did the Rising Sun members come back to their senses.

“Too late.”

Bang-!

The needle gun was fired.

Its targets were two users. One of them was Petal Kim that he did not want to see.

Bang.

Petal Kim was able to block using his two shields, however, the user beside him got swept by the grapeshot and took serious damage.

He wasn’t dead though.

“Kwaak-! Heal! Heal!”

“Where is the healer, idiot!

Just drink a potion! That bastard takes time to reload, quick”

Tikal ran over.

They have encountered Leeha before, and they were aware of the musketeer’s weakness.

“Hey! Get out of the way!”

Kuook, a player came forward and made a sword drawing posture.

His shoes were similar to a clog, and his clothes were like a bathrobe.

His clothes clearly revealed his right chest, or it was taken off.

However, his momentum could not be seen as ridiculous…

The Rising Sun members quickly retreated to his orders and one could tell by looking at them.

‘I have to stop it! I should use the bomb again-.’

As soon as it was taken out of the bag, the vaguely dressed player pulled out his sword and swung it.

“Onisatsujin (Demon Slayer Slash)!”

The sword was pulled out as if slashing the air, followed by a red energy that targeted Leeha.

Kwakwakwang–!

“Uwaaak! Force Barrier!” A hot and sharp energy ran over Leeha’s body, while green light enveloped him.

Jeojeong-!

The red energy that continuously hit the force barrier had a similar destructive power to the Brass Golem’s spike.

It was evident because Leeha’s vision turned slightly red from the brief attack.

‘This is bullshit! Such a strong person……!’

Wasn’t the Rising Sun guild itself a large-scaling gathering of users below level 100? However, there was no way a user that’s at level 100 or lower could have such a destructive power.

“Huh, as expected, you’re amazing Jaco-nim!”

Just now, tikal rubbed his hands and bent over toward the shabby man. He was a person who was urgently sent by the Rising Sun.

‘He was a Rising Sun executive!’

A close associate of the guild master who was higher than a simple action leader. He must be high-leveled.

“Hehe, I realize… I couldn’t do anything because I only have these useless idiots. Please tell us when you go back-.”

Chiit-!

“A-avoid it!”

Tikal and Petal Kim dodged and pulled Jaco.

Kwaaaaang, an explosion followed but there was only one warrior after getting hit by the bomb. There were no other casualties.

“Chiksho! Damn it, you little-.”

Bang-!

“-shit!”

Jaco hurriedly lowered his head. The bullet went through the neck of one of the archers.

‘Damn it! I only got two, and I missed the big shot! I should have killed that guy called Jaco with the last bomb… I need to reload quickly.’

‘The force barrier could only hold on for 5 minutes. I am confident I could clean up the other guys by shooting inside the barrier, but I am not sure what to do with Jaco.’

“Everyone, hide behind the trees! Petal Kim! Come! Protect me and Jaco-nim!”

Tikal quickly issued an order. He had less than 10 seconds remaining to reload.

Paat-!

However, by the time Leeha raised his musket inside the barrier, everyone had already hidden.

“Kuhaha, what to do? What to do? Force Barrier only lasts 5 minutes, right? You are dead now, you bastard!”

Tikal, hidden behind Petal Kim’s shield, shouted.

It’s a small shield, but Petal Kim had two shields. He could only fit a hemp on the gap of the shields.

‘Damn it!…… Even if I take one step on the side……. There are still six left.’

Leeha sent a whisper to Kijung first.

-There to be someone who more than level 100. Come quickly. However, was no reply from Kijung.

Sasak, sasak, while aiming at Tikal, Jaco, and Petal Kim, Leeha could feel that there were movements from the people behind the tree.

Leeha stroked and turned the musket’s muzzle, but then moved it to a different place.

He could not fight them alone, who were gradually starting to encircle him.

(To be continued…)
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‘This is serious. More than 3 minutes have passed. If it goes like this, I will suffer.’

Gulp, death……? Like this?

Leeha opened the quest window.

‘The quest won’t fail for now…. Damn it!! Do I have to worry about such a thing!’

There was no penalty for failure due to death, the quest’s time limit still had 11 days left.

If he died, Leeha won’t be able to log in for 48 hours, only 10 days would have passed in Middle Earth time, he would still have one day left.

But apart from relief, Leeha felt anger.

Even if it costs money, he would make more bombs. Or, as soon as he saw the Rising Sun, he would immediately use a return scroll. If he died, he won’t be able to avoid leveling down and dropping items

‘The force barrier is about to be released.’

…… and Leeha knew that he wouldn’t last two minutes once it’s released.

No matter how many times he used Bayonet Charge or grapeshot, all they had to do was attack him with two to three people at a time. At least two or three except Jaco.

“Huh, hey! Ha Leeha! Why don’t you just spit it out? Because once you give all your items away, we’ll know that you’re willing to surrender and we won’t kill you .”

“Shouting loudly when you can’t even step out. Show your face. Give it a try. I’ll shoot you right away.”

“Even a young bastard like you is cocky-.” “Are we in a situation where I should be respectful because you’re older?”

“Okay, just talk. After all, once the barrier ends, you’re dead.”

Tikal’s angry voice calmed down in an instant.

In fact, he knew that Leeha was in an extremely unfavorable situation, so he knew well that there was no need to be heated.

‘It’s over……. Tikal, Jako, and Petal Kim won’t move.’


Because they don’t want to get shot by Leeha’s gun. Their main force would not be able to do anything until the situation has been sorted out.

‘I have to shoot the user on the left, turn to the right and kill at least one more person with mana bayonet.’

Leeha believed that the reason Kijung did not respond was that he was busy.

‘Please, Kijung, come quick-!’

The force barrier began to fade. Petal Kim whispered to Tikal and Jako.

“Kuhahaha, are you- hmm?”

Tikal’s voice stiffened.

Tagak, tagak. He heard the sound of horses walking from behind.

“Kijung!! Huh?”

Leeha shouted in joy, but Kijung was not there when he turned his head.

“This…… What’s going on?”

A different user leisurely approached on a horse.

“Rising Sun? Hmm, are you doing PK?”

“C-can’t you tell even when you see it! Can you get lost quickly?”

“I see. Is there a musketeer here?”

“Huh? Yes.”

Leeha answered in a haphazard manner.

Why is so relaxed? ? The will surely get caught up in his problem.

However, the user wearing a helmet got off the horse and walked towards Leeha.

“Q-quickly, get lost!”


“Musketeer, by any chance, are you Kidd……? Do you know ‘Sleeping’ Kidd?”

Step, step, the user approached Leeha’s force barrier.

The user didn’t care about the shouts of the Rising Sun at all.

“I don’t know! And I don’t know what you’re thinking, but it’s dangerous to approach! Run away now!”

Leeha managed to raise his voice, but the user just calmly approached.

“If you want to help, get out of the encirclement! What’s the point of walking inside!

Besides, who is the sleeping Kidd you are asking about?“

“Hmm. I see. Okay. But I can’t just go after seeing a group PK-.”

“You’re fucking crazy, you bastard! Kill him!”

Swaeek!

The archer’s arrow flew.

The had no shield.

The user was wearing full-plate mail that looked pretty sturdy, but the user was smaller than Leeha.

“It’s dangerous!”

In the end, Leeha jumped in front of the user.

Kudang-!

Leeha felt the arrow hit his back.

“Shit! Sir! You should run away! You’ll get caught up for nothing! Because of you, my plan-.”

“Kuhaha! You’re here! You have come out! It’s over!”

“Fuck, shit, damn it!”


He was in a tight situation. Leeha clenched his teeth and lifted his musket

Bang–!

After firing from a standing position, and making a hole in the side of the warrior, Leeha lifted his bayonet as it was.

From the other side, one of the Rising Sun’s swordsmen quickly approached.

“Tornado Slash!”

Clang!

The bayonet charge was not able to stop the swordsman’s attack. As expected, it was inevitable that his weakness was close combat.

Leeha barely managed to grab his musket that missed.

“Good job, everyone move out! Kill them both!”

When Leeha, who stepped backwards, and the user, who was ignorant, Jako, who was behind Petal Kim, appeared.

Lowering his posture to the fullest, he shouted.

“Explosion Island Blast Weave!!!!”

A mass of flame followed.

“Dodge!!”

Leeha instinctively avoided it.

Boom-!

“Keoheok-!”

His body floated. Leeha’s assimilation rate was at maximum. Leeha sensed all the scorching heat passing through his body.

The sky was visible for a moment before his vision completely became dark red.

How HP does he have It should be less than 5%. Death was imminent.

“Damn…… it……“

“Kuhaha, I got you, you stupid bastard! A ranged dealer trying to defend someone. Hahaha.”

“Just now were you trying to save me?”

The player, still standing, looked down at Leeha.

Was ignorant or dull? Leeha wanted to ask that, but he did not have the strength to do so.

“Quick, run away.”

The player raised the cover of his face.

Leeha’s eyes, which were dyed red, could not see the player’s face.

“Rising Sun, I have heard of your notoriety. I thought it had nothing to do with me, but this time, it does.”

“What are you talking about? Kuhaha, iron Shield! Kill her too!!!”

Petal Kim held up his shields and cast a skill.

His two shields were covered in yellow. And he ran towards the ignorant user.

“I don’t like attacking people but……”

The player who raised his face cover took off his helmet.

“I cannot forgive you.”

Leeha, whose vision turned dark red and could hardly see in front of him, only saw one thing.

The long black hair that fluttered when the user took off his helmet. The player was a woman.

“Hmmm……. Medicine……”

The woman looked back for a moment and rummaged through her bag.

She didn’t care about Petal Kim who ran like a wild boar.

“Dieeee!!!!”

Rather, when Tikal and Jaco laughed and were convinced of their victory.

“……Lunge.”

Her body stretched. The Rising Sun members, other than showing their expression, didn’t know what to say.

Petal Kim, who was running while holding his shield in an X shape, got cut directly in the thigh by the tip of the user’s sword.

“Kuwaaak-!! This giiiirl-!”

Petal Kim staggered as he ran, but he already lost his momentum. She swung lightly like a matador, dodging the charge.

“As expected, it’s not that far off. Ah! What? Are you in pain?”

The woman looked at her sword with a dissatisfied expression and looked at Petal Kim.

With an innocent smile.

“Y-you crazy- hyungnim! Help-.”

“Shoot!”

Tikal knew. A gap was shown when she turned her back!

At Tikal’s command, the archers immediately shot.

“Heavy shot!”

A blue energy gathered at the tip of the arrow. Before the energy could even gather, the arrow had already cut through the air.

Shwaeek…. Tup.

“What?”

“It was…… caught? Skill? Magic?”

The eyes of the people watching widened.

Her body moved an inch or so in an instant. They couldn’t even see moving.

“It’s not magic……! S-She turned her axis with her toes…”

Only Jaco recognized her skill.

It was not an active skill, it was a skill that was deeply embedded in the body.

It was amazing to dodge like that, catching an arrow flying from behind. Even with bare hands!

“Oh my goodness, it looked like he was still alive and breathing. This arrow is cute.”

Keuung, the arrow in her hand, still struggled.

She spoke about a bloody arrow like it was a sparrow’s beak. Her laughter and surprise were somehow unrealistic.

“Ah!”

After a while, she threw the arrow that lost its energy to the floor, and she went down.

She rummaged through her bag, and took out a vial and poured it into Leeha’s mouth.

“Kuheok- Wha-.”

“Drink. This happened because you vainly tried to protect me……“

As soon as he drank it, Leeha’s dark red vision disappeared.

‘What, were potions this good?’

He never used it. One low-class red potion was so expensive it almost cost 1 gold.

After drinking only one-third of the potion, Leeha felt his vision completely clear up.

“Oh, this is great. Here……”

“Keep the rest. If you go out like that, even two lives won’t be enough.”

When Leeha handed back the potion, the woman smiled and refused.

Leeha, whose vision cleared up, saw the woman’s face for the first time.

Her long black hair had escaped from her helmet and looked even darker and in harmony with her silver armor.

How about the closely packed facial features?

When she smiled, her eyes curved like a half moon, it was very cute.

‘She might be…… Asian.’

How strong was she? Leeha did not know because he did not see what happened.

Seeing the Rising Sun in a surprised state, he could only guess that she was strong.

“Hmm, I don’t mind if you leave right now……. Will you?”

“W-we will leave-”

“What are you talking about, tikal! We just have to go all out!”

“Jako…… nim?”

Tikal looked at Jako who cried out, but he couldn’t refuse.

As Leeha expected, Jako was an executive-level figure in Rising Sun. Even though Tikal was an action leader, Jaco was a powerful person in a much higher position than that.

“Hold her down! 15 seconds, no 10 seconds……! I can definitely kill her! Believe me!”

Jaco lowered his posture.

It looked like he was putting all the energy from his body into his sword and trying to blast it away.

“Phew, men are like that. I think you would be better than Tikal in Middle Earth. Don’t you think so?”

“Oh? Yes Ah……”

The woman looked down and asked warmly.

Leeha couldn’t get used to her way of speaking, like someone who was watching people at a banquet.

In front of someone who was aiming for them with all their might, how could she talk so calmly?

Tikal looked like he was crying, but a glimmer of hope was revealed on the faces of the Rising Sun users, including Petal Kim.

10 seconds. 15 seconds at most. It meant that Jaco, a melee damage dealer, would use a skill that required 10 seconds of casting.

Tikal bit his lip and stepped forward.

“Archers, do you know what to do?”

“Yes, hyungnim.”

“Attack!!!”

“Waaah–!!”

“The two of you, die!!”

Shouts were heard everywhere as the Rising Sun members moved towards Leeha and the player.

There were 10 seconds remaining.

“I-It’s dangerous!”

“Ah, what’s happening all of a sudden? Acceleration.”

Leeha cried out instinctively, but soon regretted it. Was it really that dangerous?

(To be continued…)
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There was a sound of a snake licking its tongue three times.

Sss-sss-sss-!

When Leeha saw the woman’s armor reflect the sunlight, her sword had already entered and exited the bodies of three different people.

“Keoheok- What kind of-”

“Oh, aren’t you pretty strong?”

She approached the tanker, who held his stomach and raised her sword with a smile.

A thin, sharp sword protruded from the back of the tanker’s neck.

“Flanconade.”

“N-no way! How could you-eup!”

Tikal looked at his waist.

There were seven holes lined up, from his left side, stomach, and into his right side.

In an instant, tikal’s body turned gray.

“You?”

“Uh, you, I mean-” Petal Kim, who was left alone, stuttered.

There were 6 seconds left. What happened in just 4 seconds?

All of the guild members, including Tikal, died.

Petal Kim’s head quickly made his head work. They lost in skill anyway, if that was the case, words might work.

“I don’t want to continue anymore…… can you please spare me?”


“Hmm, what should I do? What’s your level?”

“5…… 51. Please spare me.”

“Instead of leveling up, you are here bullying the weak. Aren’t you wasting your time?”

Leeha was treated as weak, however, he did not feel sorry for it.

It was funny…… how the situation was dealt with.

“That’s right, you are absolutely right, noonim.”

“….. What did you just say?”

A vein appeared on the woman’s forehead. Petal Kim quickly waved his hands.

“Noo- no, that’s not- miss. No, that, madame?”

“Phew, how dare you call me that. Am I someone that should be called madame?”

“No! Miss! Maiden! You look like a flower- ”

“I don’t like to hear such words. Anyway, I will send you on your way-”

“Nice! Hold on to her, Petal Kim!!!”

Jaco opened his eyes and shouted. Petal Kim suddenly embraced the woman.

“Y-yes!”

“Oh my? Are you sexually harrassing me?”

“Talk like that in hell, demon Sword – Shura!!!”

Jaco pulled out his sword and cut through the air.

KiyaahI

“Keuk, what is that?”


Leeha’s hairs stood on end at the ghostly wails.

The sword’s cry was miserable. It wasn’t just a sound.

Leeha saw Jako’s sword shoot a dark blue aura that felt dangerous.

“Careful!!!”

Haaaaa…

“K-Kuaaaa–!! Jaco-nim!!”

The dark blue aura instantly wrapped around Petal Kim and the woman he was holding in place. The dust created by the attack blocked everyone’s view.

“I will report your sacrifice Petal Kim.”

Clang, Jaco forcefully moved his feet, and stabbed his sword to the ground.

He was confident no one could survive his attack. The feeling of satisfaction bloomed from his face after using his best skill.

‘They are dead…… huh……?’

He could only think like that, because his skills were not normal.

Earlier, Leeha definitely felt the energy of ‘Fire’.

‘I have 30% fire resistance because of the bear set, but I still almost died. Moreover, the skill he used was stronger than before. It was a special skill that took 10 seconds to cast.”

“Ha Leeha, if you give me everything you have, we would not look for you to kill you indefinitely anymore.”

“Don’t be ridiculous, you crazy bastard.”

Leeha began to reload, but Jaco only relaxed after seeing that. He smiled and walked.

He knew it would take 30 seconds to reload, and even if Leeha finished, Jaco was confident he would be able to dodge at close range.

“Haha, it’s not a shotgun, so who are you going to hit me with that slow attack speed? To match me-.”

“Phew, ……. I know, right? Shouldn’t it be fast?”


“Keoheok.”

A silver sword emerged from Jaco’s chest.

Drops of blood dripped from the tip of the sword.

“You’re- alive-”

“It was quite interesting, Jaco-ssi. It seems like a bit of a waste for you to be in Rising Sun.”

He was struck from behind, and Jaco wasn’t able to survive getting attacked by someone he thought was dead.

Suuuk, when the woman pulled out the sword, Jaco’s body turned gray.

“A-are you hurt?”

“It hurts a little, but it’s okay. There was someone who was quite valuable in Rising Sun.”

The woman smiled awkwardly, shook her head, and straightened her hair.

Leeha was embarrassed that she seemed to have only jogged.

“Hold on a second, the potion you gave me is worth one 一 ”

“Ah, just drink it. It’s a gift.”

“A gift?”

“Yes. It’s the first time I’ve seen someone try to protect me……”

The woman and Leeha made eye contact.

Their eyes met for a moment, and the woman quickly turned her head.

“A-anyway! You should drink that. It’s a good thing in its own way.”

“Thank you.”

Leeha bowed to the woman, and she quickly whistled.

A horse hidden in the forest came out and went to her.

Leeha was somewhat disappointed, will she leave like this? Did she help like an apostle of justice and then just disappear?

“Excuse me!”

“What?”

“I’m sorry, but can I know your name?”

“Ah! My name?”

The woman seemed rather flustered.

He wasn’t asking for her number, was asking her name really that embarrassing?

The woman hesitated, as if happy and embarrassed, meanwhile, a cry was heard from far away.

Kukukuku, a person was running with dust rising along the way. Leeha knew just by listening to the voice.

“Cough, were you in a party?”

“Ah, yes. W-wait a minute. Please wait a minute.”

Leeha was somewhat embarrassed by his younger cousin calling his name from afar.

He was definitely fast, if one considered that he came from a far off hunting ground, however, the situation was already over.

– Kijung, the situation is over. I didn’t die. A passerby helped me. You can stop now.

But he did not receive a reply from Kijung. On the contrary, Kijung was getting faster and faster.

“Hmm?”

“He can’t hear you, can he?”

Leeha and the woman tilted their heads together and laughed.

“Arara. Why not?”

– Kijung, stop it! This person helped me, she’s not from Rising Sun!

It was as she said. Kijung couldn’t hear his whisper.

It was because Kijung couldn’t distinguish the sound of vibration from running and the vibration from whispers.

Kijung increased his speed with a distorted face.

They dared to point their sword at his hyungnim?

“How dare you–! You bastards-! Holy Spirit! Test Rush!”

A glimmer of light wrapped around Kijung’s body. Rather than stopping, his momentum got faster.

He put his shield in front of him and placed his sword on the upper edge of the shield

After getting killed by Agromni Igor, the all-in-one assault weapon, Kijung developed a skill to one-shot!

Blocking the opponent’s attack with a shield, he would slash his sword and cut off the enemy’s head in an instant!

“K-Kijung! Wait a minute! She’s not an enemy!”

The dust cloud seen from afar narrowed in an instant.

Leeha shouted at Kijung and tried to protect the woman in front of him, but the woman stood in front of Leeha.

“Thanks. You stood in front of me twice. But it’s okay, you should back off.”

“What?”

“Huaaap—!!!”

“Kijung-”

When Leeha felt Kijung grazing him, Kijung was already about to collide with the woman.

“Esquive toucher.”

Don’t!”

Piing. Leeha thought he heard a sharp, shattering sound, and the road along the forest began to diverge.

Pachook-!

How good was Kijung’s charge? The dirt on the road was plowed like a furrow.

“Kijung and- ah- miss?!”

What should I call you? In any case, Leeha ran towards the two who had been pushed past him.

At the end of Kijung’s charge, which stopped digging dirt at the road after 10m, he and the woman were facing each other.

The tip of Kijung’s sword and the tip of her sword were pushed together.

And with one of her feet resting at the center of Kijung’s shield.

“No way……”

The woman blocked his sword with her sword, and raised her feet to absorb the shield charge, and was pushed away.

In other words, Kijung’s momentum was blocked while she stood with ‘one leg’.

Kijung’s expression froze.

It was possible for her to not fall from the shield attack.

But how was she able to counterattack with her thin sword while blocking his charge?

“Ow ow ow ow, my leg hurts……. You’re from the Byulcho Guild. I had never heard of someone so violent.”

However, the woman was also shocked.

“Are you okay?”

“Yes, my ankle is a little sore. Isn’t he quite strong?”

She was shocked that the impact broke her ankle.

Her words that Kijung was strong was sincere, however, it didn’t seem like he would feel good hearing it.

“No…… wait…… Hopefully-.”

A look of surprise appeared in Kijung’s face.

“Oh, really? Oh? No way?”

Leeha was a little worried when Kijung couldn’t keep his mouth shut.

“Why? What is it, Kijung?”

However, Kijung’s mind was too complicated to answer Leeha’s question.

Why was this woman here? Also Leeha?

“Shin Nara!!!!!!!!”

Kijung shouted.

(To be continued…)
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“Shin…… Nara?”

Is he talking about that Shin?

6th place in the world ranking, 1st among female users in the world, 2nd place fencer in Korean ranking, and an Olympic gold medalist!

Leeha looked at the woman as well when he heard Kijung.

And he remembered the sword she swung and the movements she had shown.

‘Now that I have a closer look…… they are similar!!’ First of all, the shape of the sword was similar. A thin and elongated sword like a rapier! In addition, her reaction speed, movement, and flexibility that seemed to transcend humanity! Among swordsmen, especially fencers, it is their skill and specialty.

Just like what one-armed Lepanto showed.

“S-Shin……! Shin Nara-nim! You’re Shin Nara-nim, right??”

“Hahaha, you recognized me. You’re right.”

Shin Nara replied shyly, and twisted her body.

It was hard to see the person who blocked the charge, that could have been able to break even a fortress wall, with a thin sword and a single leg.

“Oh my god! You’re not, right? Rising Sun? are you here, Shin Nara-nim? No, do you two know each other?”

“No, no, how do I explain it?”

He was on the verge of dying surrounded by the Rising Sun, and a person on horseback saved me. But it was Shin Nara?

‘Will he believe me when I explain it?’ Leeha did not know that Shin Nara heard his gunshot which had pulled her, so he couldn’t figure out how to explain.

“I was just passing by. He even saved me, so we got a little close.”

Shin Nara said with a smile.

“Saved? Leeha hyung-nim saved Shin Nara-nim? You are in the top 9, what are you talking about?”


Kijung managed to hold back his laughter as he took turns looking at Leeha and Shin Nara.

“I-I didn’t save you, I just thought it was dangerous, so I-.”

As Leeha spoke, he only thought that it was .

It’s only been a few days since he reached level 60, and he tried to protect the 6th place in the rankings.

He instinctively tried to protect in case they involved, but now he was embarrassed.

The more Leeha struggled, the more Kijung giggled. However, Shin Nara, the party involved, neither laughed nor was ashamed.

“It’s true. It’s the first time I’ve seen a person try to protect me using their body. Thank you.”

“Ooh-la-la…… Wow…”

Rather, she was slightly shy and bowed her Kijung and Leeha felt embarrassed.

And Shin Nara asked.

“What’s your name?”

“Me?”

“Yes.”

Kijung looked at him with a reluctant expression.

“My name is Ha Leeha.”

“Ha Leeha-nim. Ha Leeha-nim.”

Shin Nara repeated Leeha’s name over and over again.

She had a small voice ,but Leeha felt his ears burning every time he heard his name out of Shin Nara’s mouth.

“It’s been a while since I had fun. Then-.”

“Where… are you going?”


“What?”

With Shin Nara’s words sounding like they were going their separate ways. Leeha spat out words unknowingly.

“W-where are you going?”

“I am going to do my quest……”

“Then will you go……?”

“Ah, that…… I don’t know exactly……

“Ah! Yes. I understand. I’m sorry. I asked you for no reason.”

As Shin Nara bowed her head as if she was sorry, Leeha became even more apologetic.

It was a ranker’s quest. In Middle Earth, where information is very important, it was rude to ask such reckless questions.

Leeha suddenly felt like a beginner.

“No. You saved me, hmm……”

Shin Nara glanced at Kijung. And Kijung understood what Nara meant.

“No! I’m not going anywhere! My name is Master Kay of Byulcho. I’m with Leeha hyung and we are cousins. I’m not going anywhere! It’s not like I want to hear you talk! So don’t worry about me- ”

“B-be quiet you idiot! You’re talking a lot right now!”

“Waah, why are you like that?! Huh? It’s not like you have an appeal?!

“I-t hurts!”

“Pfft.”

Seeing Leeha and Kijung banter, Nara laughed softly.

Leeha and Kijung looked at Nara for a moment.

The woman who treated Rising Sun like a toy became so cute when she smiled.


“Isn’t it rude not to tell my life saver? In fact, I came to the capital for a weapon.”

“Weapon? Ah, I realize that it’s not Shin Nara’s weapon.”

Kijung, who was getting pinched in the cheeks by Leeha, opened his mouth.

He could guess it, as there were a lot of very popular articles on the internet.

Kijung knew almost all of the rankers’ famous equipment, but it was the first time he saw Shin Nara’s sword.

“Right. Phew……. I’m going crazy because the sword was sealed and thrown away. How am I supposed to fight with something like this.”

“Ah.. A stick.. That’s a stick.”

For someone who could punch 7 holes in a person’s stomach to say something like that.

Then how much damage could she have used if she had her original weapon?

Leeha had a terrifying imagination for a moment.

“Yes. I am trying to find where a magic sword is. There were no clues so I was looking around Korea first.”

“Right. Magic swords are not easy to find.”

Kijung shook his head as if he was sympathetic.

Shin Nara’s effort almost brought him to tears

“If it’s a magic sword that a fencer uses, is it similar to Brochette?”

“……!”

Shin Nara’s eyes widened at Leeha’s words.

“Brochette! How do you know that?”

“Oh? Yes?”

“My quest right now is to find traces of ! A skewer that could pierce even five layers of steel, the rapier, brochette! Do you know? No way, does Ha Leeha-nim have it? It is said that if I can find traces of Brochette, I could unlock the sword’s seal! Where is it? Do you have it now?”

“No, there- it’s not-.”

She suddenly tied her hair in a ponytail and her eyes twinkled.

Every time Nara took a step closer, it felt like she was possessed by something.

“Please! Please tell me! No wonder the sound of your gun was extraordinary! I was a little disappointed that you were not ‘Sleeping’ Kidd, but I didn’t expect you to own Brochette!”

“I-I-I am not the owner of Brochette! Wait for a second, I will explain!”

“Yes, yes, please! Please tell me!”

Shin Nara grabbed Leeha’s hand.

How long had it been since he had felt the warmth of a woman’s hand. Next to him, Kijung was busy getting amazed, and looked at Leeha and Nara alternately.

He was trying hard to figure out how to make fun of them.

“Ah…… okay.”

“Yes, so I don’t know where it is right now. I know he’s probably out of Fibiel, but……”

Leeha explained to Nara how he got to know about .

Of course, he did not need to talk about the Three Musketeers, it was enough to only talk about the one-armed NPC he had the chance to encounter during his quest.

Seeing the dead expression on Nara’s face, Leeha’s heart ached.

“I’m sorry, I can’t be of much help……”

“No! What do you mean it’s not helpful! It might have taken over a month to travel around the country alone. Just saving that step is a huge help. Since you said he went near the Minis border, I think I know where he went anyway.”

Nara quickly raised her head and waved her hands as Leeha’s voice subsided.

“Then now……”

“Yes, then……”

Nara and Leeha nodded while hesitating. Kijung, who saw it from the side, weakly laughed.

“Will you go to Minis?”

“Yes. I will use a scroll right away. Thank you, Leeha-nim. See you next time!”

“Yes, please be careful.”

As Leeha said goodbye, Kijung poked him in the side.

– Hey, what are you doing? Ask her to give you her number, no, this is Middle Earth, ask her to be your friend! Why are you acting like a person who’s on a blind date for the first time?

– Be quiet, man! You came late!

As the two bantered, a notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

He didn’t have time to check what it was.

Another whisper covered over Kijung’s whisper, a whisper that made his head tremble.

– Can I add you…… as a friend? Don’t tell the person next to you…….

Leeha barely closed his mouth, which was about to open wide.

As he saw Nara twisting her body while she sat on the horse

Leeha’s heart fluttered.

Add to friends? Of course.

– Yes! I won’t tell him.

– I’m sorry. I’m sorry, it’s a little hard not to be friends with the person next to you, but……. I only have a few friend spaces left…

– Of course, of course. Absolutely. This guy will understand.

It wasn’t obvious, but Leeha always took Nara’s side.

What was happening? He had difficulty controlling himself.

“Then, goodbye. Please tell me when you come to the capital!”

“Take care, Shin Nara-nim! It was an honor to meet you.”

“I often run into Byulcho guild at hunting grounds. Then, see you next time, master Kay-nim, Ha Leeha-nim.”

Kijung politely said goodbye, and Nara and the horse she was riding shuddered and disappeared.

Leeha and Nara’s sparkling eyes met for a few seconds, until she disappeared.

“She left.”

“Yes, she left.”

As Leeha mechanically answered Kijung’s words, Leeha stared intently at the spot she had disappeared.

Just looking at the way she spoke, she was pure and innocent, but had overwhelming strength.

Leeha was immersed in the charm that came from her skill, which did not align with the personality and temperament that she had.

“You think she’s pretty, right?”

Of course, one couldn’t miss the fact that she was cute. Kijung, who was staring at Leeha, poked him in the side.

“Oh? Ohh? W-what are you talking about! I don’t.”

“Haha, this, this is the first time I have seen this kind of expression from you. Are you completely obsessed with her? By the way, aren’t you forever alone?”

“Heuk! This child, there’s nothing you can’t say to your hyung. Do you think I am forever alone?”

“Isn’t it the same? I think hyung told me about it before.”

“I have dated before!”

“When?”

“That…. Anyway, I have.”

20 years ago! Leeha didn’t think he needed to add that.

He would only get teased if he brought up a story of his elementary school days.

“By the way, if you come to the capital, please tell me……. Rankers think of the capital as their home.”

Leeha, who was embarrassed, quickly turned around.

Kijung laughed and added an explanation.

“Of course. Shin Nara-nim doesn’t have a guild. Do you know why?”

“Why?”

“The Sacred Knights is Shin Nara’s guild.”

“What? Sacred? What are you talking about?”

“She was the first user to join the Sacred Knights, and it was the first time a user got awarded a knighthood. Compared to rankers, Shin Nara grows stronger through quests rather than hunting, but there’s a reason she is famous. Shin Nara-nim was the only user who had received a knighthood from the Fibiel Kingdom.”

“Wow…”

“The capital’s NPCs are said to be unable to control themselves when they see Shin Nara. She gets treated very kindly. I wish I could get treated like that.”

It was an incredible experience to see Kijung getting really regretful.

A user that was able to eat along with the monstrous Sacred Knights.

Compared to other veiled top rankers, Shin Nara’s activities were revealed, which forced her to receive more spotlight.

‘She was a better woman than I thought……’

Leeha opened his friends window and looked at Shin Nara’s name once more.

She already passed Marching Plains.

“Oh, didn’t you say the Rising Sun bastards were here? How did that happen?”

Kijung’s expression became serious again.

In the first place, it was the reason he stopped hunting and came to rescue Leeha.

It’s because Kijung heard the urgency in Leeha’s voice.

(To be continued…)
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After hearing Kijung’s words, Leeha came to his senses.

Having met Shin Nara was a fun, strange, and unforgettable memory, however, it wasn’t important right now.

“Yeah, that’s right. I think they found me after watching the Brass Golem video.”

“Ha~ Those bastards really……. That’s why getting information is so valuable. It must have been also the reason why those bastards were released like packs of dogs.”

“If Nara-ssi didn’t pass by this time, I would have been really dead.”

“Nara-ssi?”

“Oh? No, Shin Nara-nim.”

Seeing Leeha flustered, Kijung smiled again.

“Puhihi, I wonder how flustered Shin Nara-nim would have been. There aren’t many people in Fibiel Kingdom that could threaten her, I couldn’t believe that you were so ridiculous that you’d throw your body in front of her. That would have been really funny. What kind of confidence was that, huh? You suddenly look more like an expert now than a big hyung.”

“I didn’t know that there was that much difference. I felt sorry, she was just passing by and was unlucky to get caught up with me, and my armor has fire resistance, so I thought it would be better if I got hit.”

“Then you could have died, hyung. If you want to level up quickly, you should take care of yourself.”

“I know that as well. But what if I can’t do that.”

In fact, it was Kijung who risked his life to protect Tale in the battle of Tiwi Canyon.

Perhaps it was Leeha and Kijung’s weakness that they spoke coldly, but couldn’t act that way.

“Anyway, it’s right to be nervous because this time, I almost died.”

“Yes. Until level 100, only choose places where there aren’t many people-.”

“No, no, I can’t do that Kijung.”

“What? What are you talking about?”


“I don’t really like revenge but,……. not this time.”

Leeha opened his character window, looked at his stats, and looked at Kijung.

“Then what are you going to do?”

“I have to pay them back.”

Leeha’s eyes shone.

“Hmm，I like hyung quite a bit, but the meaning of paying them would be to attack the Rising Sun! You will be Middle Earth’s messiah for low-levels! That’s what you meant, right?”

His words were playful, but his voice was serious.

Kijung frowned, and looked down.

“I-It’s not the same thing. I can’t just keep getting attacked. In that case, war-”

“Who? How? Do you know anything about the Rising Sun? Have you ever wondered why these bastards still exist in Middle Earth?”

Kijung cut off Leeha’s words and pointed things out.

Those who intensively abuse their power and bully users who were below level 100.

They’re like robbers who ruthlessly torment and loot items and gold to the point of crashing the game.

Why did such a vicious guild continue to exist in Middle Earth when Rising Sun did not even have experts? Of course, Leeha had guessed.

“Because it’s hard to destroy.”

“Right! Do you know how many of those fuckers there are? If all the Rising Sun mutts gathered, there so many of them that if they together there would be no place for beginners to spawn in Candle Castle. Generally, those mutts are scattered, but they are still a guild. They are an organization! What if the higher ups gave orders to rush at you? You won’t be able to overcome that.”

“What about you? No, what about talented rankers?”

“There are obstacles there too. If it’s a 1-on-1, I am confident in winning against anyone from Rising Sun. But why do I have to? All rankers think the same, so they don’t intervene. I mean, there’s nothing to gain in comparison to the effort put in. Even if I kill them, they would keep coming out like cockroaches, so there’s no way to clean them up completely.”

If it’s 1-on-1, it’s worth trying.

But, there’s no way they would agree with 1-on-1. Moreover, simply killing them and taking their item was different from destroying something to the root.


“Hmm, what if you kill the guild master until he quits?”

“The vice guild master will take over…… otherwise, a 2nd or 3rd Rising Sun will appear.”

“Damn it! Does that mean there’s no other way than to avoid their eyes and level up?”

“That’s why that guild still exists.”

Kijung made a simple conclusion and changed the topic.

“Anyway, you should start leveling up without thinking about anything else. Understood?”

“Yes. I understand.”

Leeha responded promptly and nodded. It was then that Kijung sighed.

“Haha, level up quickly so that you can hunt together with Shin Nara! Aren’t you supposed to show your cool side?”

“W-what are you talking about!”

giggled again and poked Leeha’s side to liven the atmosphere.

“Anyway, be careful. I will go now.”

“Alright, thank you for coming.”

“I was late, and wasn’t able to help. If it gets dangerous, tell me again, hyung.”

“Right.”

Kijung laughed and tore a teleport scroll.

The background changed in an instant, but Leeha could see Kijung’s expression harden.

“Well……. First……. I should go as well.”

Leeha used the return scroll only after Kijung disappeared.

It was the literal meaning of the word. At least for now, there seemed to be no other way than to level up.


“You’re here.”

“Yes!”

A habit from his military days always came out whenever he entered the academy.

However, it was rather comfortable for Leeha.

Browless also seemed to like his angular and hardworking behavior and tone, so the two of them got along well.

“Now, do you understand the difference between hunting and sniping?”

“Of course. Hunting and sniping are, namely, pursuing and waiting. In particular, sniping means preempting information about a target to reach a vulnerable travel route, and waiting until one could deal with the target.”

One shouldn’t just talk about it.

Leeha took out five roadrunner’s tail feathers from the bag and placed them on the desk.

After hearing Leeha’s explanation, Browless looked at the tail feathers.

His face was brighter than ever.

“Indeed…… you were able to complete it in just 10 days.”

Babam-!

The sound effect tried to cover his small speech, but it was already after it reached Leeha’s ears.

Browless’s smile was more welcome than simple compliments.

That smile was nothing less than the highest compliment that the director of the academy could give.

『 You have completed Accuracy Enhancement Training 2: Sniper and Hunter. 』

『 You have acquired 5 silver. 』

『 Skill – Marking has been acquired. 』

‘Good. Another one! It’s marking this time.’

Leeha followed Browless and smiled.

Although the reward money was not much, the skill was more precious than money.

‘Eagle’s eye is literally a skill for magnifying eyesight. Then marking……

Just looking at the name, one could already guess. It was literally to mark.

On what? Mark what? If the quests so far led to a story, one could also guess the content.

‘Does it mean to leave a mark on the sniping target?’

He had the urge to check and test the new skill, however, Browless did not even give him the chance.

“But without information about the target, waiting would be useless. Isn’t it?”

“Yes.”

“When, where and how the target will come……. Even if it comes again, you have to know exactly what the goal is.”

Browless’s speech was relatively slow.

It was natural that another hint of this quest that was hidden in his words would leak out.

Leeha focused on his words.

“If it’s a monster it would be easy. In particular, boss monsters have different appearances, so anyone could tell. But what if the target was a person?”

“What?”

“People are different from monsters. If you don’t know their characteristics, you would have a hard time recognizing them, and even if you , you won’t be able to distinguish them from afar.”

“I-It seems so.”

A person? A person suddenly?

Leeha nodded his head and answered.

It was definitely hard to tell people apart.

He should be able to do it with Eagle’s Eye, but what if he didn’t have it? Right now, he could only guess the color and shape of clothes from 200 meters away.

He couldn’t tell at all the external features, such as mole on a face, or an unusually protruding belly.

One could tell the difference of color between Brass Golem and Stone Golem, but it was rare among people.

“Do you know what’s important, especially when dealing with people?”

“You just talked about information, so there must be something else.”

“Haha, you’re quick to notice. What is it?”

It was a riddle from Browless. Leeha was reminded of the basics of sniping.

Strictly speaking, killing a target from a distance is not the end for a sniper. There was no real end.

Leeha was able to answer Browless’s riddle.

“Securing a safe escape route. It is of utmost importance that a sniper can return safely. Especially when dealing with people, you have to be vigilant, you have to be able to get away from intelligent pursuit, so unlike with monsters, you have to make an effort.”

Clap, clap, clap.

Browless clapped as he heard Leeha’s reply.

Shuaak- a notification window appeared before the applause was over.

『 Accuracy Enhancement-3: Comprehension Test 』

Description: ‘You must not be caught, let alone reveal your identity. What makes snipers feared is not letting the targets know who, when, and where they are being targeted. In order to maximise fear, you should be undetected and successfully return safely. Be sure to come back. Alive……’ Browless’s voice had a certain amount of power. As the final sequence of training, the test that Browless gives is a real battle.

Content: Kill ‘Angel’, the leader of ‘Wild Angels’, within 30 days (0 / 1)

Reward: Skill-Snipe, intimacy with the Sacred Knights +20%, Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution +50

Condition for Failure: Exceeding the time limit, death, party play

Penalty for failure: 『 Accuracy Enhancement Training 』 will disappear, 『 Miss Elizabeth’s Will 』 will disappear, 『 Disappeared Legends 』 will be cancelled, 『 Browless’s Expectations 』 will be cancelled, Quest route will reset.

– Are you sure you want to accept?

‘Last test……! And snipe? What is that!’

In addition, there was another skill in the reward.

In Middle Earth, where it was extremely difficult to obtain a single skill, Leeha received 3 consecutive skill quests.

‘It is definitely a quest that is meant to train me. I got it all.

And in terms of rewards, it’s a catch, but only if it is successful.

Seeing Browless’s bright expression somewhat darkened, Leeha scanned the contents of the quest again.

“Recently, the Sacred Knights are losing their minds because of the guys who have been roaming the Southeastern provinces.”

“Are they mages?”

“Yes. Looting, arson, human Trafficking. It was said that it was difficult for the local guards to handle it because of the sudden increase in taxes. They have sent separate squadrons several times, but it was reported that they were impossible to defeat because of the ‘bastard’ who is good at strategy and tactics.”

“Hmm… it looks like the leader of the bandits is a strong person.”

The name was also displayed in the quest window.

‘Angel’. Seeing his name was Angel and was involved in human trafficking, Leeha frowned.

“However, it is impossible to send the Sacred Knights to clean up some thugs, and we’re the ones to get the request. It is the judgement of the Sacred Knights that if there’s a guy who is good at strategy and tactics, we just need to remove him.”

Browless showed a poster.

“Is that his face?”

“They have never seen him, but that’s what was drawn after hearing rumours and descriptions.”

And he is called Angel.

“I think his name should just be Dark Angel.”

“Haha, right.”

Leeha took a closer look at the image.

(To be continued…)
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A square face and a chapped chin. A thick mustache that was likely to be two fingers long.

Anyone could see ‘I am a villain’ face was drawn.

‘He sure is not worthy of his name.’

Leeha had no intention to refuse the quest. This was his last training and first real battle.

Of course, for Leeha, the previous ‘trainings’ were great adventures that risked his life.

At least in Middle Earth, this was his first battle as a sniper.

“Okay. I will kill Angel and come back alive. Ah…… I don’t think it’s necessary to ask, but can I ask you one thing?”

“What is it?”

“Even if I kill Angel, I don’t think the magic squad will go away completely. Who will take over, or won’t there be a second Wild Angel that would be created?”

Leeha asked the question as he suddenly remembered it. He remembered having a similar conversation like this a while ago.

Compared to what Leeha was worried about, Browless’s reply was quick.

“There’s no guarantee.”

“What?”

“They could break up…… Infighting might occur due to succession issues. The second and third Wild Angel? There are probably not many people who have such great abilities as that ‘Angel’. Of course, it could be possible. Someone better than Angel may succeed him.”

“Then…”

“What does that matter? You have to toss a coin to know if it is heads or tails, don’t you?”

Browless smiled as he patted his long-brimmed hat.

With that answer, it felt like the fog in Leeha’s mind was lifted.


“That’s right! Yes! Haha, there’s no point in predicting the future!”

One had to pull the trigger to know if it was right or wrong.

A 100% chance of success or failure was useless until the trigger was pulled! After all, nothing had happened yet!

“I will go now!”

“Please come back safely.”

Browless gave no further information. It meant that Leeha needed to get information himself.

Leeha saluted Browless.

“NPC? If it’s someone who gives this kind of advice, why would it matter if they are NPC or not?’

Leeha’s brain spun faster.

***

“Is there a group of bandits here called Wild Angels?”

“W-wild Angel?!”

“W-w-why are you asking? Did the Wild Angels appear? Are they here?”

The NPCs in the pub of a small town called ‘Graf’ reacted in surprise.

That alone made Leeha understand, needless to say, Leeha first went into the pub.

He out the situation first.

‘The rumors of Wild Angels are from this town.’

From the capital, he took the warp gate as far southeast as possible.

However, if it was a city with a warp gate, it could be considered mid-sized.

There was no way for a band of bandits to appear near places where security, guards, and city walls were equipped.


A few days of walking towards the southeast of the city. In a small town called Graf.

It was the last test and had a time limit of 30 days.

Leeha decided not to rush. His goal was to clear it perfectly and safely

even if he had to use up all his time.

‘If possible, I should raise my level a little more. I have to figure out a way to hit a target 444m away.’

Leeha looked into the barrel of Needle Gun for a moment.

He inserted a cloth into it using the skewer in order to remove the gunpowder residue.

A special quest to obtain Miss Elizabeth’s Will, the next generation of the Three Musketeers, and the weapon she used!

Contrary to Leeha’s desire to challenge it, he was not ready yet.

‘I can’t hit it.’

He tried several times after getting Eagle’s Eye.

However, it was not easy to measure 444m, above all, it was difficult to shoot the bullet that far.

‘I roughly know it’s over 400m but……. I want to estimate until there’s only 1m difference.’

It was hard, even for someone like Leeha, who trained in the military. It’s a quest that normal users couldn’t complete.

‘Even if I can guess the distance, the next problem would be shooting. The maximum range of the Needle Gun is approximately 350m.’

From there, it needs to reach an additional of more than 100m.

How can a bullet which lost its kinetic energy fly an additional 100m?

There was a reason why Miss Elizabeth guaranteed that her successor wouldn’t appear easily.

While contemplating on how to finish the special quest, Leeha also had to find and kill Angel, the leader of Wild Angels, so his head was going crazy.

“Phew……”


Leeha once again packed up enough supplies and left the village.

He only needed to go blindly towards the southeast direction.

After walking for two more days like that, Leeha saw black smoke.

‘Smoke……? Fire?’

Leeha got off the road and quickly climbed the hill.

As Leeha got a little closer, he could see fine light purple particles in the air.

If it’s purple, it’s space-related magic.

‘Maybe the bandits locked the space? NPCs, no, monsters?’

Humanoid monsters like kobolds and real human monsters were completely different.

Leeha admired Middle Earth once again, he entered the place where the light purple particles were floating.

‘I can’t scroll now.’

There was a shallow fence in the distance, and several houses within it were on fire.

Leeha approached the village, which was the site of looting and arson, using the topographical features.

‘Okay, at this distance……’

He went a little further in a crawling position on the hill. Because of the grass, Leeha could not see much below, however, it was enough that he could see the guys walking around the village.

At the point where even their loud voices and screams could be heard, Leeha used a skill.

‘Eagle’s Eye.’

『 Beginner Eagle’s Eye (Lv.3) 』 Description: Borrowing the eagle’s eyes, a human could see a rat the same way an eagle sees it.

Effect: Expand your field of view for 80 seconds (Limit: 500m, 10x maximum magnification)

Mana: 150

Cooldown: 1hour

You can see 500m away as if you were only 50m away. And the location between Leeha and the burning village was only around 300m.

In other words, it meant that Leeha could see the faces of the people in the mess 300m away like they were only 30m ahead.

“Haha, get all the money you need!”

“And the women? What should we do about the women?”

“Of course, you should take them as well! If you don’t want to be hugged, then you don’t have to!”

“Bwahahaha, that isn’t possible, I- ahh!”

Vulgar and blatant shouts. Excited by the madness and violence, the bandits were destroying the village indiscriminately.

It was just the right moment for an apostle of justice to show up and stop the bad guys-! Leeha could defeat them, however, he was not an apostle of justice, and they were not living humans.

Leeha held his breath and observed the situation.

‘The destruction itself is indiscriminate, however, there clearly is a system.’

There were three people waiting at the entrance to the village. One could be seen holding a bow, and two holding a crossbow.

It was clear that they had set boundaries with guys who had good eyes and could attack from a distance.

‘And a guy that looks like a boss only gives commands at the center of the town. He doesn’t move.’

He screamed and made loud noises, but his body didn’t move. He pretended to move by turning the horse’s head, however, the radius of action was fixed within a certain range.

Even in a small town, only his subordinates carried out the looting.

‘…… No, there’s as much as . Forty-five if you include those who were on watch. If you add the ones near the boss, is it about 50 people……? These are not simple bandits, right?’

It was certainly not a number that could be afforded by the guards in a small town.

In a small town like that, the guards are limited to less than 10 people.

Even in Nitai, a village near the border where a warp gate was located, there were around 50 guards.

‘If there is an appropriate strategy, they should be able to attack a medium-sized city with a warp gate, although it would be quite difficult.’

That was why it was a problem.

Leeha carefully pulled out his musket.

The distance between the mustached guy riding a horse at the center of the village was around 320m.

‘It’s far. At this distance, the probability would be less than half.’

His accuracy was stable up to 200m mark, however, even Leeha wasn’t confident at the distance of 250m or higher.

It’s over 300m, and he’s still moving.

‘The most important thing is that I can’t run away.’

Leeha could run faster than low-level users, but the bandits rode horses.

Space was locked and scrolls were disabled.

Even if he somewhat sniped the target, it was impossible to escape, so he had no choice but to give up shooting.

Leeha quietly opened his skill window.

Another reason why there was no need to rush caught his eyes.

『 Beginner Marking (Lv. 1) 』

Description: Your efforts to identify the target has finally blossomed. Hunters and musketeers use a small amount of mana to track the target.

Effect: Highlight and display the target’s movement in the map（0 / 3）

Mana: 150

Cooldown: –

‘I thought it was too good to be true because it had no cooldown, but it doesn’t matter if I can only use it thrice.’

It meant that he would be wasting it if he wasn’t careful. In addition, Leeha’s current mana was 570, and if he used the skill three times in a row, he wouldn’t be able to use it a fourth time.

‘The first is the leader. Marking!’

The looting was about to end, and Leeha magnified the center of the village again.

Leeha used the skill towards the man who looked like a typical villain with a thick mustache, a square face and looked exactly like the image Browless gave him.

‘Oh! The target is outlined? Amazing.’

The target was covered with a blue silhouette-like outline.

With this, no matter how many enemies were grouped together, it would be easy to see who should be shot and whether the target was down.

Leeha found the next target with a satisfied smile.

‘It should be fine to put it on one of the guards ahead of time.’

One with a bow and two with a crossbow. Comparing the pros and cons of crossbow and bow, it was obvious who the marking should be used on.

‘The guy with the bow…… Marking!’

This time, it was a purple silhouette. Leeha minimized the eagle’s eye and slowly moved in a crawling position.

‘Who’s next?’ But none of the moving ones stood out in particular.

Are all of them a captain of a group and are similar to battalion commanders?

“Let’s go! Kuhaha, today is a feast!”

“Leeha-!”

Ihihihi ——!!

The bandits started to gather in the center of the village and made strange noises.

‘No, I have to hurry.’

One more marking should be done before leaving. Leeha increased the magnification towards the captain

‘If it’s this guy or that guy, and they’re all bad guys- huh?’

(To be continued…)
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Then a guy came into view. His attire was similar to that of other mages, but he was a particularly young-looking guy. Above all, his skin was white and supple, and he stood out.

“Let’s go!!”

Ihihihi—

The bandits started to run out of town.

“Damn it! They are all in the same position- marking!”

Leeha’s third mark went to the young-looking man. A yellow outline was drawn on him.

“Phew……. I passed the first step.”

After confirming that the bandits were getting far away, Leeha went down the hill and headed towards the village.

“Uwaah ——! Daddy, daddy, da-! Moooommy!”

In front of the crying little boy was a man with a spear stuck in his stomach.

Did his father die and his mother taken away?

‘They didn’t have to make it so realistic……

Looting, arson, and destruction, but not all of the village.

Since they had to take the money the village earned, the bandits left most of them alive except for some ‘examples’.

‘The question is, can you still call them alive when their eyes are dead.’

A gloomy atmosphere emanated from the NPCs.

As Leeha passed by and glanced at them, the windows in the buildings were getting closed with a banging sound.

The only thing the villagers could give to a stranger was vigilance.


‘There are no users.’

Leeha opened his map. The terrain that recessed into the mountain range, and the village that moved further in after a long time.

A place that did not have a good hunting ground, and no roads to connect to neighboring cities. It was a place one wouldn’t come to unless one was really an explorer.

‘The main camp is, of course, at the foot of the mountain.’

In addition to the indication markers, the map showed three additional markers, t1, t2, and T3.

For the next 72 hours, they will not be able to hide from Leeha’s map.

“Excuse me, sir.”

Leeha talked to the old man who leaned against the outer wall of the building.

The old man did not answer.

“Sir……? I just have a question to ask.”

The old man stared into the air with a blank expression. Saliva dripped down his lips.

Leeha quickly brought up his concern.

“A group of bandits called Wild Angels… ”

“AAhh-! A-Angel-nim, please spare me, t-this is all I have! P-please!”

“O-Oh no.”

The old man who looked like a sloth earlier, moved faster than a cat.

The old man lay flat on the ground and rubbed his hands.

Hearing the word ‘Wild Angels’ he reflexively jumped out of it, and Leeha got flustered.

“I am not from Wild Angel. May I know when they are coming here?”

“I didn’t have any income since they left 10 days ago! They took my daughter too, and all I have is my life now. Please me!”


Conversation didn’t seem to work, but Leeha got the information he wanted.

‘10 days……. Are they going to the town every 10 days?’

Leeha opened his map and left a mark on his location.

It was not the time to add prejudice or speculation. Only fact-based information must be collected.

“What kind of weapon does the Wild Angel use? How many guys use bows or crossbows?”

“W-Wrong! My daughter was just amazed at Angel-nim’s face!”

“Old man.”

“Help me, help me!!”

“Wild Angel.”

“Help me, help me!!”

“Hmm……”

work. Leeha spent more time with the elderly man who begged for his life with tears nose, hoping he wouldn’t miss any information…but he did not hear anything relevant.

‘I didn’t expect that it would work, but I wanted to hear their weapon composition.’

He checked again but having conversation did not work, Leeha looked around and knocked on doors, however, no one opened.

Leeha gave up as he did not get any answer even after he used bargaining.

‘Let’s chase those guys first.’

If he stayed in the village any longer, his existence would be discovered. If the Wild Angels ever returned, there was a risk that his existence as a stranger would be revealed.

Leeha quickly went out of the village and started chasing after Wild Angels.

‘This should be its range.’

Leeha’s map was reflected in the moonlight as he ripped his jerky. It was not easy to chase the guys on horseback while on foot.


‘It would have been impossible without marking.’

Leeha looked at the dark-looking gate at the base of the mountain.

He chased after them for more than 10 hours on foot from the village to where he found Wild Angels.

Only after confirming that the markers on the map stopped moving and stayed there for more than three hours did Leeha put a note on the map saying ‘This is where the Wild Angels are’.

After magnifying the map to the point where it was impossible to enlarge anymore, the first thing he did was to examine the topography of the place.

Looking at the map drawn up to the contour lines, he accurately put the mountain range in his head.

‘The second marked is the bow. The fact that he’s at the end, means that the headquarters is narrow.’

T2, he’ll probably go the farthest anyway.

It was the reason why Leeha marked the one with the bow and not the ones with the crossbow.

Since the bow required more skill than the crossbow, it would mean that he was the best among the guards, especially at night, because the most dangerous and remote areas were highly likely to be entrusted to experts.

‘There’s no way they would send the guys with the crossbows who are focused on short-ranged direct fire in a far away place.’

If there was a watchtower in the base, they would have crossbows, but if it was long ranged, they would mix archers and melee attackers to set up a boundary .

Leeha decided to investigate the area of the main camp slowly.

If he narrowed down the area to the limit, and from there he could approach again.

‘In manhwa and movies, the secret agent could easily analyze the data in the computer! Taking things out. Being careful moving around when the guards shif, to not get caught! And doing stuff.’

However, it was not the same in reality. The tedious and persistent task of acquiring and analyzing information was the most important.

The time it took for a bullet to leave the muzzle and reach its target was 1 second.

But for that one shot, a sniper needed to prepare for one year.

‘Okay, I have to take it slow. I only need to investigate the western slope today. More than anything, I should focus on certainty and safety.’

Leeha had a lot of time and was not in a hurry.

The best date was in 6 days. All he had to do Angel’s head within 24 days.

After fully familiarizing himself with the terrain, Leeha rolled up his map and put it in his bag. Leeha roamed around the Wild Angel’s base day and night.

Sometimes when the marker moved, Leeha laid down in place and endured for hours.

The wait was enough to make anyone nauseous, however, it was relaxing for Leeha.

‘It’s because I’m not in a hurry. I should close my eyes for a moment.’

Target 1, he confirmed that the guy with a mustache always entered the house.

In other words, even if the mark was released, Leeha could mark him again anytime.

Leeha investigated the third of the estimated area of the Wild Angel base until the timer of the marking skill was over.

Two days have passed when he logged back in, after sleeping in reality Leeha used the marking skill and checked the position of the guards, he also roamed around for a few more days, and went back to reality to sleep again.

Leeha couldn’t even tell what he was doing or if he was playing a different game.

After 17 days had passed in Middle Earth’s time, Leeha’s map was full of notes.

‘Great.’

The outskirts of the Wild Angel’s main base, major boundary positions, and even the cycle when the Wild Angel plundered villages Leeha had taken notes of.

There literally all sorts of information written on it.

“Haha, where’s that bitch?”

“She’s still in the private room.”

“Daamn, she’s still not out yet? I want to do her quickly too.”

One magician waved his waist and said.

“I don’t know if they will come out soon. They seem to like it.”

“Anyway, you can’t think straight when you see a pretty woman.”

“Isn’t it the same for the boss?”

“Be quiet, you bastard. Stand guard on the border.”

There was no vigilance among them who exchanged vulgar words.

‘Even if they look closely, they won’t find me, with that in mind……I miss the camouflage cream.’

Leeha laid flat under the tree, and removed the mud that was dripping down his eyelid.

Leeha used mud instead of camouflage cream, and weeds and grass were inserted in his hat.

If one didn’t really look closely, one would not be able to discover Leeha at night even if there was moonlight.

When the bandits started to talk about useless things again, Leeha moved.

A small tree behind them continuously emitted pale lavender light.

‘Magic Circle, crazy bastards! Bandit.’

It wasn’t until three days after he started searching for information did Leeha realize.

No matter how many bandits there were, they were able to guard flexibly, but Leeha thought it was strange because their boundary point never changed.

‘They should have set up a magic circle on the border area. It would be difficult to use the return scroll after all.’

Besides, guards were watching over the magic circle, so it could not be destroyed.

‘In the end, I have go in myself and shoot, and then get safely and use the return scroll.’

It meant that it was essential to disguise and approach silently.

Leeha never sped up even after he passed the guards safely.

No matter how careful one was at night, there would still be sounds created, so it was important to be as quiet as possible.

And if one moved fast, one might miss an important point.

‘It’s these guys.’

Leeha put his finger in the air.

He covered even his silhouette was no longer visible.

If Leeha hurried up and because safely passed the guards at the boundary, then he would be in trouble! They would know that an assassin came! And would spread around the camp.

‘It should be okay, since I have been here many times.’

Leeha bent over and moved back.

He took out the map and checked the movements of the markers one last time.

(To be continued…)
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‘The target is in the annex. Before going to bed, he must go to the main building.’

Leeha checked all the places the target stayed, but he didn’t come out easily.

Shooting was difficult during the day, and the target not come out at night.

‘But there’s an opportunity today. On the day they plundered a village and brought a woman, he would stay at the annex until late at night.’

What were they doing with the woman they brought?

It definitely wasn’t rock-paper-scissors. Anyway, the cruel ‘Angel’ did not come out of the annex until midnight.

The annex was 50m away from the main building.

Leeha took out his musket and laid down a spot where he could see the main building.

He was 170m away and in a place where he could not pull out his musket for a long time in case it got discovered.

But he did not get frustrated. Leeha learned how to become one with nature while doing this quest.

What if the target didn’t come out?

If he changed his mind, what would he do in the annex?

Such questions were the enemies of snipers. Leeha controlled his anxiety and persistently and calmly refined his breathing.

Leeha prepared for 17 days for this moment.

After shooting, while the guards and troops in the camp were in a panic, he would go outside the range of the magic circle and use a return scroll to end the quest.

“Cough, phew-!”

The door finally opened. Leeha used Eagle’s Eye to check his target.

Dark mustache, chapped chin, and a square face. A familiar face caught his eye.


The guy looked around and grabbed his pants.

‘Yeah, he always grabbed his pants when he’s done.’

He had prepared for this. There was nothing he couldn’t do.

In Leeha’s mind, he had already drawn a picture of himself moving through the escape route.

Leeha gently pulled the trigger.

Bang-—!

It was dark, however, he saw something fly out of Angel’s head.

The gunshot caused a commotion in the Wild Angels’ base, and Leeha ran towards the designated escape route.

“T-t-the shadow is dead!!!!! Everyone, wake up! Wake the boss up!!!”

“What?”

Although it was not planned, the unexpected cry of one bandit stopped Leeha’s movement.

‘Shadow? What does it mean?’

Leeha didn’t have time to think. He had to escape!

However, Leeha had a hard time moving.

‘Isn’t that bastard the boss? Is it the weak-looking guy?’

‘Should I have checked the opening of the main building? Could it be that there was someone who looked just like him?’

‘No, that’s absurd. I don’t know their names, but I have roughly identified the faces of about 50 people. I have investigated for 17 days and there wasn’t any other guy with that mustache.’

‘But why am I anxious?’

Leeha hurriedly unfolded the map. And took a quick look.

The marker T1 disappeared.


‘It was the boss that was marked. The fact that there was no T1 mark means that that guy is T1, and he is the boss!’

‘But what did they ? What did it mean? Besides, wake the boss up? Isn’t the guy who died the boss?’

“Damn it!!”

Leeha eventually turned his feet..

He had to check, he wanted to know what those guys meant.

Leeha went to his shooting spot.

Several bandits were screaming around the fallen corpse on the floor.

‘I’m sure he’s dead.’

‘Does that mean he is not ‘Angel’?’

The bandits were still in a panic, even the guards in the nearby forest screamed in surprise, so how flustered must the guys inside be?

It was such a perfect snipe, and if he had run away from there, he would have been out of the magic circle’s range and used a return scroll. That was the situation he had planned!

It was perfect.

“What are you doing! That’s why I have made a shadow! There’s an assassin nearby! Find him!”

And at that time, a man jumped out of the shabbiest building in the Wild Angel’s base.

His clothes were shabby and his voice was weak and thin.

However, as soon as the command was given after a quick assessment of the situation, the movements bandits, as if waiting, began to come alive.

“Sound the alarm! Use your searching ! Open all the scrolls too! the magic circle! It’s meant to stop the rat from escaping! Hurry!”

“Y-Yes boss!”

He only looked like a weak young man. His only characteristic was that his skin looked whiter than the other bandits.

All the bandits bowed down toward that young man.


“That’s crazy! It was that kid?”

It was only natural that swear words came out of Leeha’s mouth.

Who would have thought that ‘Angel’, the real leader of Wild Angels, would have been such a wretched man.

“There! There!”

And with little work, they found Leeha’s location. He had no more time to think.

“Catch him!!!!!”

All Wild Angels ran out.

There was a bend at Leeha’s location, but he was only 150m away. He had to hurry.

“Damn it!!”

Leeha also got up and started to run.

“Haa, haa. It’s messed up.”

Leeha’s mind was complicated. As he reflected on the situation while running, Leeha missed the guard post around him.

Two soldiers standing on the border rushed to Leeha.

“This-.”

“Bayonet Charge!”

Leeha instinctively blocked the swinging sword and cut through the attacker’s stomach with the mana bayonet.

“Kahak-!”

“Kuwak!”

At the same time, he hit the man, who fired several arrows, with the musket’s butt in the jaw.

He didn’t even care if they were both dead or not.

Leeha ran again without looking at the two enemies he had defeated.

‘I must first! The man I killed… was a shadow.’

Heok, heok, Leeha was out of breath.

He felt his stamina run out. If it hadn’t been for the achievement he earned when he was level 1, Leeha would have already been finished.

Fortunately, thanks to the skill he got, Leeha was able to continue to move.

‘The image! It was definitely the image that Browless gave him. The data provided in the quest information was wrong in the first place- no, wait.’

Right, Browless was the one who gave it to me.

But what did Browless say when he gave it?

『I have never seen him, but they said it was material drawn after hearing rumors and description.』

Browless’s thick bass voice rang in Leeha’s mind once more.

‘Damn it, the quest had already started from there! Discovering the identity of Angel was the beginning of the quest! Didn’t he say that I shouldn’t believe it unless I have seen it in person, and have a source of information?!’

It was a comprehension test.

Leeha had emphasized the need to properly collect information even in previous quests.

No, I was even told with this Wild Angels quest that information was very important.

‘No matter how hard it is! Even if the quest brought strange information!’

If so, what additional information should have been gathered from the villagers and inhabitants of the villages looted by Wild Angels?

Anyway, it was now too late for regrets, and Leeha went through the forest.

A squeaking noise followed by a pulling sensation. Clink clink! Clink!

Over there!

He went out of the magic circle! it! Use detect scroll!

“Damn it!!”

Leeha took out a scroll from his bag.

He tried to rip it apart, however, nothing happened. One scroll turned into pieces of paper and dropped on the floor in vain.

‘It’s still blocked, but if they locked the space here as well…… how far should I run? How long do I have to run away? If I go out of the forest now, it would be flat land.

It would be impossible to run away from the chasing men on horseback.

For a moment, Leeha sweep through his body. At the same time, he heard the cries of Wild Angels.

“Found him! One enemy nearby! He is alone! He’s in the northwest, 90m away!”

Their detection skill found Leeha so he needed to prepare.

‘It’s preferable to go on high ground. There’s no way to go down.’

Leeha turned around and began to climb the mountain.

The rustling of grass was heard from all sides.

Thanks to the detection skill, it was impossible to quietly escape now. If it was okay to make noise anyway, there’s no reason to stay quiet any longer.

Chiii–!

“Damned bastards! How could these bandits use detection magic? Okay, let’s try it.”

Boom–!

At the base of the mountain, a loud noise began to spread.

“Magic! He used magic!”

“Crossbow! Get the crossbow now! Interrupt his casting!”

“What did you call me, you bastards?”

Chii, Leeha lit another fuse.

After getting attacked by Rising Sun, he fully recognized the importance of bombs.

Even if he had no use for it, there were at least 10 or more bombs always available in case of emergencies.

‘I thought it would definitely not have a use in this quest.’

It wasn’t just 10. There were 30 bombs piled up in Leeha’s bag.

It wouldn’t be easy, but if he had to fight… Leeha was also confident.

50 people? 1 bomb per 1 person was enough to blow 30 people away.

It was as if he had brought as many bombs as he poured on the Brass Golem.

‘I won’t spare any money. My life is more important.’

If he died, everything would disappear, regardless of the quest.

He wanted to do the quest cleanly and leave, but he did this himself!

Chiiii ——!

“Move! Shield!”

Boom–!

The explosion knocked down trees and fire flashed, but this time there were no casualties.

Amid the darkness, the blue mana shield shone brightly.

Even the face of the one who used the mana shield.

“Angel……?”

“Who are you? I don’t think you’re a dog of the royal family.”

Leeha clearly saw that Angel didn’t rip a scroll.

Angel shouted as he came forward and made a shield to protect his subordinates.

‘It was said that he was a magician? Can mages cast magic that fast?’

Is he not a bandit, but a demon?

Leeha could not answer the question of the named monster.

He could not tell that he was here to kill him for his quest.

“If you don’t answer, you will die right here-.”

“I’m sorry, that can’t happen!”

Chi, chi, chi!

Leeha lit three bombs. The bandits were terrified at the sight and retreated.

“Uwaah!”

“You idiot! Using the same trick again! Shield!”

The enemy bandits gathered behind their boss. In front of them, angel cast a magic spell.

Leeha smiled as it appeared.

“You’re the idiot.”

Boom—!

Three explosions were heard in succession, and the slopes of the mountain were dug up.

Dirt and gravel bounced as a hole appeared in the terrain.

“Damn it, scroll to find him!”

“Cough, cough Up- cough, he went up!”

“Hurry up……. You bastard!”

They were able to find his location, but after the smoke and dust cleared up, angel had no choice but to clench his teeth.

Due to the completely damaged terrain, it was not possible to pursue their target up the mountain.

In the first place, the bomb was used to thwart their pursuit.

“I remember your face! I will definitely find and kill you!”

Angel’s voice came through the darkness.

After climbing for a long time, and finally passing the purple border, Leeha ripped a return scroll.

『 Beginner Marking (Lv. 1) 』

Effect: Highlight the target and display its movement in the map for 72 hours(1 / 3)

(To be continued…)
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“Haa…… haa……. I’m alive.”

Leeha looked around.

There were no NPCs or players to be seen in the village, but he immediately recognized it. Because it was the first village the Wild Angels looted and burned.

The appreciation he had lived was short-lived, and anger soon boiled over. ’

‘The operation was deceptive! This is the 17th, no, the 18th day! After using 18 days, I only managed to get the fake boss!’

What are these quests?

The information was shady, but ultimately, Browless emphasized securing the escape route!

‘That keyword was a trap. Most importantly, I should have noticed it earlier. The title was Comprehension Test, if the goal was only escaping, it should have been given a different title. No, if I didn’t have any doubts there, I should have had doubts when I saw the picture. If not, I should have spent two to three days continuously collecting information in this or the next village.’

Leeha was angered for blowing the 3 hints that were given to him by Middle Earth.

‘I am an idiot! Fool, idiot!’ To reorganize, Leeha went back to the village two days away. He needed to move further than that to find a city with a warp gate.

In other words, once Leeha came back to finish the Wild Angel quest after getting sufficient supplies, he would only have less than 1 week .

‘I don’t have time……. All my efforts so far have gone in vain, damn it…… What method should I use? If I want to use bombs, I still have 20 left. Or should I go back to get suppl?’

‘Should I turn the money I get from the Brass Golem’s shield, into bombs- No, that’s crazy.’

It was possible for Leeha to carry hundreds of bombs and use guerilla warfare while running through the mountains.

However, this quest was not made for that, he had to think about whether it would be worth it.

There was no way someone would pour 180 gold into 1 quest.

‘I should do it worst-case scenario if I think of a better way…’

Leeha judged it was not the right time. He bit his lip and opened the map in a hurry.


“Huh?”

Just before he tore the return scroll, he used 『 Marking 』 on the real ‘Angel’. It was shown to Leeha that the T1 mark was moving around in the Wild Angels’ stronghold.

‘Is he organizing? No. There’s no need for the boss to recover the corpse or improve the base’s vigilance himself.’

When he threw the three bombs, Leeha clearly made eye contact with Angel.

He was unexpectedly able to see the face of the young man accurately.

‘It means that I saw correctly.’

It meant that he also saw Leeha clearly. What if he saw Leeha’s face. If that’s the case?

He would use the magic circle to prevent the assassin from running away.

It could be said that he was somewhat knowledgeable about magic.

Why was that NPC moving fast now?

“Is it…… to find me?”

He wanted to chase Leeha!

In an instant, the T1 mark began to run out of the stronghold.

At a speed that a human could not achieve. It meant that they had finished all preparations and were riding on a horse.

“Damn it!”

Leeha’s heart beat quickly. It didn’t end with just a return scroll. When it came to monsters, it was fine, but it wouldn’t work on humans.

Is this where the ‘return safely’ part of the quest from Browless?

‘Run- no, where to?’

It would take two days of walking to get to the nearest village!

Was it around 4-5 hours of walk from here to Wild Angels’ base?


It took 10 hours at first, because Leeha walked slowly, and investigated the surroundings, in case he got caught chasing after Wild Angels.

In other words, if Wild Angels were on a horseback, they could arrive within an hour.

It meant that it was impossible to run away on foot.

‘That’s why I need a lot of random teleportation scrolls.’

Had there been a crystal ball, Leeha would have been able to escape safely, however, it was not an option for him right now.

He had to prepare right away.

‘It’s still night……. Those guys would also arrive at night. Since he thinks he is smart……

It would be a fight of intelligence. Leeha had to deceive him.

‘I will deception with deception.’

Leeha looked at the map and the surroundings then ran out into the darkness.

“Burn everything! Find that bastard!”

“Yes, boss!”

Hihihing!

The neighs of horses broke the dawn.

The villagers who have been plundered repeatedly were not able to withstand night attacks.

The Wild Angels, who broke into groups of 3, were thorough.

They did not burn in order to make an example, they really burned everything.

Whruruk, wharuk!

“Ah, aaah–! P-please spare me!”

“Fire! Didn’t a stranger come here? Come spit it out!”


“N-no one came here! There is no one like that!”

Families ran out of the burning house, but they got quickly surrounded by Wild Angels.

“Did anyone know Angel’s face?!”

“A-angel-nim’s face, no we don’t know- keheok!”

“Then there’s no need. Kill them all, burn them all!”

Angel stabbed the man’s body and immediately cast a spell.

He threw a fireball into the house to check.

Tuquaang–!

No screams were heard. Only the pungent smell of burning flesh wafted through the window.

He knew that the situation was dangerous when his shadow got killed.

That was why they started the pursuit without waiting for dawn to come.

If he made smart decisions, the assassin was not much of a threat.

A smart person is a real threat when he has the momentum, in that sense, ‘Angel’ was a threat in the eyes of the Fibiel Kingdom.

“Assassin, come out! Come out!”

Since the assassin knew his identity, angel and his men went on a magic rampage and tried to completely eradicate the village.

Boom—!

In an instant, a huge explosion broke out of a “E-Explosion!”

“It’s that bastard! It’s that bastard! Surround the building! Lock the space!”

Ehihihi!

At Angel’s cry, members of Wild Angel began to gather.

The terrifying explosion they just saw was similar to the one they saw when they were attacked.

However, there was no fear in their eyes.

“Kill him! Find him!”

“Kuhahaha, you bastard! I will tear all your limbs!”

“Stop him from escaping! He’s in this building-.”

Boom—!

Uh- what?”

“A-another explosion!” Again? Although it was a small town, the location of the first and second explosions was far from each other.

Angel looked at the two buildings alternately.

It should be where the assassin was.

“Here…. no, that bastard is on the explosion site! Find him first! Use the detection scroll!”

Rip, rip, the sound of ripping paper rang out, but their complexion turned pale.

“There are too many villagers getting detected!”

“Damn it! Kill them all! If you kill everyone, he will surely come out! There’s no place he could run away on foot!”

Yes, boss!

Obviously, the biggest shock to them was not being able to find the assassin at the site of the explosion.

However, find the one hiding, they quickly decide to kill everyone in sight.

“We must see his body burned to death! Destroy all buildings, kill all the residents! Bring me the assassin’s corpse!”

Huik, huik!

Oil was poured and fire strengthened.

The villagers, who came out of fear, had already encountered Wild Angels several times.

Whenever they were looting, they scoured through buildings to check if anyone was hiding.

“Keoheok!”

“Kuwaaak! R-run away-.”

“Dad- keuk.”

Still, wild Angels did not let them go.

Knowing that they were not assassins, but ordinary villagers, they cut them down without saying anything.

“Come out, you bastard! Royal family’s dog, are you going to watch as the villagers die! Come out!”

Angel shouted. His hoarse voice shook the morning air, but only intermittent explosions could be heard.

Boom-—!

And another sound was heard, it was the fourth explosion.

“This bastard……”

Unlike his subordinates, who were rushing around looking for Leeha, angel stopped moving.

Then he remembered the buildings and surroundings where the explosion occurred.

The leader of the bandit gang, who the Sacred Knights were bothered by, was certainly smart.

“He’s not here! He’s not here! Three groups clean up, the rest follow me! Next! We will go to the next village!”

The explosions were just diversions!

Angel judged that the assassin prepared some kind of tactic to throw them into confusion, and ran away.

There’s no one in the village who would fight back, 9 people should be enough to clean up.

“N-next village? Did he go to Graf?”

“If he was a simple guy, he would have gone to Graf, but this guy was unprepared but smart.

There’s no way he would go to Graf when he knew he would be chased. It means he is still definitely here.”

It was the most reasonable guess for Angel, based on the information given.

“Follow us as soon as you clean up the village! Run!”

Angel smiled coldly.

(To be continued…)
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The second village did not have a lot of residents.

As soon as the Wild Angels arrived, they used space locking, detection, and navigation scrolls.

“There’s no special energy either! Except for the villagers……“

“Damn it! Does it mean he didn’t hide this way? Set it all on fire! Destroy anything suspicious!”

Angel gave instructions with a toothy sound.

Instead of running away, he will hide within this territory and then pull out when everything calms down a little.

If he was a guy who used the explosion as part of his tactic, he would use such a strategy as well, right?

“Do you periodically check the road?”

“Y-Yes, boss. We used a detection scroll every 100m…”

The Wild Angel bowed his head.

“Bastard! Where are you!”

In the first village explosions were used to cause confusion, in the second village there was none prepared, was it also used to cause confusion? Angel’s mind spun rapidly.

Then a third town?

“Argh, this guy……! All five groups destroy this place! Everyone, set it on fire!”

The fifteen Wild Angels began to destroy the village.

It was a burning, bloody scene of slaughter. It was the end of a small and powerless village that was unable to avoid this kind of fate.

“The rest of you, follow me! If he went out of here, he could not have gotten far!”

Yes, boss!


Angel and his men sped up again. The detection scroll range was 100m.

If they used it every 100m, the guy that ran away on foot would not be able to escape.

“Is there a reaction?”

“No sir!”

“……Now?”

“There’s no reaction sir! We are the only people in a 100m radius!”

“No way…”

Angel tilted his head. About thirty minutes after they left the second village and headed for the third.

But there was no response? No matter how fast a person ran, he wouldn’t have been able to run more than this.

“If he hid in the forest……

It would be a different story if he went into the mountains instead of going to a village, but Angel shook his head.

If that was the case, he would not have made an explosion in the first place…

“What should we do, boss?”

“Great. Two teams, go back with me. The rest of you, go to the third village and destroy everything. Get everything of value.”

“There’s only 7 of us!”

“You idiot! You will meet the guys who took care of the first and second village. Join them and clean up the third town, after that go back to the base! Get ready to move right away.”

“I-I understand!”

The members of Wild Angels ran out on the road at night.

As the sun moved away, the surrounding areas dark again. There were three more hours before sunrise.

“We are going to the base first!”


“Yes, boss!”

Angel headed to their base with only two people as his escort.

After destroying the three villages and looting the important items, they planned to move completely.

“But do we really need to move our base?”

“Of course! What’s the use of a base that has been exposed!”

Ange shouted loudly, and the dazed longer spoke.

“Who was left here?”

“There’s no one left here, boss.”

One wild angel held a torch and Angel and another subordinate followed him.

They would not be able to run down the mountain road with no light. Angel and his men slowed down and rode the horse slowly.

“Good. You two, take care of the storage first. There is no need for useless clothes and weapons. Money-.”

At that moment, blood splattered from Angel’s forehead.

Baaang—!

A white light source shone from the hillside of the forest leading to the base.

“Huh? Boss?”

“W-Where, w-who’s there!”

“Don’t be surprised, you guys will follow too.”

A man appeared on the side of the hill.. In his hand was a loaded musket.

Baaang—!

Blood splattered from the head of another bandit.


The corpse of the bandit instantly turned gray and disappeared! The other one tried to run away in a hurry

“Too late.”

Leeha finished reloading, and a series of gunshots rang out, but no one came.

『 You leveled up. 』

『 You leveled up. 』

『 Achievement : Bandit Hunter: Wild Angel (D+) 』

Congratulations! You have defended the order of the Fibiel Kingdom. Even though there’s no bounty, your name will begin to be known within the kingdom for saving the people suffering from bandits!

Reward : Constitution +3, intelligence +3, mind +3, Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution +90

‘Haaa……. It’s only D+. They were so hard to catch.’

Leeha’s level rose by two, but the achievement’s grade was only D+.

‘Haha, still, I caught him. The quest is also finished.’

As soon as the bomb was placed on the first town, Leeha went to Wild Angels’ base, and not the second village.

They did not expect him to head back to the tiger’s den, and hide under the lamp. Leeha predicted the success of his plan when he saw them headed towards the second village.

Angel moved faster than expected, but because he was such a guy, Leeha knew he would definitely return to the base, and with only a few escorts at that.

‘Anyway, he really a quick judgement. Maybe because he’s an NPC, if he was human, he would be hesitant, but he did not even .’

Leeha looked at where Angel was for a moment. He couldn’t believe that Angel appeared after only getting position for a few minutes.

When Angel stopped on the way to the third village, Leeha had not yet reached his expected point.

Leeha was startled when he saw Angel start heading towards the base the map.

If Angel had been a little bit quicker, his plan would have failed.

‘Anyway…… It’s over. Success.’

Pleasure of success and drowsiness rushed in at the same time. This was what dealing with ‘people’ was like.

“Rising Sun are noblemen compared to these dogs. Those guys are humans, but not humane, so it’s even harder.’

Shaking his head, Leeha opened his map again.

Before the remnants of Wild Angels get back to their base, Leeha had to run away as far as possible.

He was dying of sleepiness, but it was dangerous if he logged out here. What if he logged back in and encountered Wild Angels?

‘I can’t create a situation like that.’

Leeha led his tired body and ran through the forest and mountain to avoid the road and headed to Graf…

As he ran, he suddenly felt bitter when he remembered the description of the achievement.

‘I didn’t save the suffering people, three villages were destroyed because of him…”

The game setup a place where other people would not pay attention to. Leeha felt sorry even if he knew.

‘Next time, I have to think of a way to save it.’

felt heartbroken.

Leeha kept walking and walking until the sun rose and he found a safe place where he could log out.

Squeak- Squeak-

Leeha was tired enough that he could sleep while sitting on the wheelchair.

‘I think I am more tired than when I did the 3rd-tier general training……. Yaaawn.’

He reflected on the sniper-like activity he did for a long time, and laid down in bed satisfied.

“Son! I’m going!”

“Yes, take care! Oh, I’ll send money to your account today!”

“Today? What other money are you sending?”

“It’s not a lot of money, so don’t expect too much. Just use it as pocket money.”

“Did you make money with that machine?”

“Yes. I was lucky. But it’s not really much.”

Leeha scratched the back of his head.

Not much? The final winning bid for the Brass Golem’s Shield was 191 gold. It was almost double than the Kobold Eonwoldo.

About a month had passed in Middle Earth, but it was only 10 days in reality since he sent 10 million won into his mother’s account.

He understood that he should tell his mother that he was not earning too much money.

Otherwise, his mother would be concerned.

“You don’t have to send it. It’s okay. My son.”

“Where would I use it…. Anyway mom, you can buy a bag or shoes! Oh! Something like this….”

“Hey, hey. I work in a restaurant, what would I do with those shoes?”

“So that restaurant- No, I know. Hehe, anyway stay healthy and safe today!”

“Okay, don’t skip your meals!”

It would be great if she quit at the restaurant.

However, Leeha was well aware that the income he earned through Middle Earth was unstable.

At least it was not the time to tell her about it yet.

“That’s why I need to grow stronger as soon as possible. Even a little faster.”

In front of the door where his mother left, Leeha made a promise as he moved his wheelchair.

After he moved to the virtual reality connector,

Leeha logged into Middle Earth, checked if he was safe and secure, and then opened his quest window.

“Haha, great. I have cleared it.”

After confirming that he had definitely caught Angel, and saw his achievement, he felt some sense of uneasiness. What if it was not cleared?

However, after he saw the (1 / 1) on the kill mark on the quest window, he felt relieved.

“Now, the only remaining quest is Miss Elizabeth’s Wi…… ah! It’s already done.”

Should I do the quest? It was the reward from the previous quest!

『 Holy Grill Capital Branch Opening 』

“It’s in 4 days……

There was no special content. All he needed to do was to go to the capital branch after 4 days.

After nearly 40 days of preparation, a new store had finally opened in the capital.

“It’s because of me.”

A single user influenced the map of Middle Earth’s largest kingdom’s capital.

In addition, it was not just an ordinary shop, it was the headquarters of an Intelligence Guild that required secrecy.

Leeha went to the village warp gate with a satisfied smile.

First, he went to report the completion of the quest 『 Accuracy Enhancement-3: Comprehension Test 』.

“I’m here, director-nim!”

Leeha entered and greeted loudly.

Browless sat in the chair as his chin rested on the desk.

His eyes serious.

“……Were there any issues?”

“What?”

“A member of the Sacred Knights told me.”

“Ah……!”

His low voice dampened Leeha’s excitement. Besides, the Sacred Knights visited, and the reason was obvious.

‘It is understandable. If he only cared about success, he be called a sniper?’

He somehow liked it. However, it had already happened, Leeha did not want to make an excuse.

There was no need for emotional reflection. Browless was a person he referred to as his instructor.

Leeha only said facts.

“The guy named Angel was actually a different guy. I ended up killing his double because I failed to acquire the correct information. As a result, three nearby villages suffered damages. It was because of my inexperience. I’m sorry.”

Although they were only small villages, three of those places were almost destroyed.

By killing the double, the real Angel’s actions became fiercer, so he actually touched the whisker of a sleeping lion.

(To be continued…)
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If Leeha acquired and analyzed information a little more carefully, found out the true Angel’s identity, and shot him accurately, it wouldn’t have happened.

‘The rest of the Wild Angels only do what they were told to do.’

This was a group of bandits that was maintained by the absolute charisma of the leader called Angel.

They were united because of their infinite trust in his judgement and strategy, so if it hadn’t been for Angel, they would have been almost immediately disbanded.

It was a bit unfair that he was scolded even after he completed the quest, but Leeha readily acknowledged his mistake.

“What? What are you talking about? I wanted to apologize because the Sacred Knights have delivered wrong information.”

“What?”

In Browless’s words, Leeha made an absurd expression.

“It was something that the kingdom couldn’t solve in the first place. You did nothing wrong. Rather, you did well.”

“Oh, ooh. Is that so?”

“Haha, I couldn’t see it in person, but I could tell just by hearing what the Sacred Knights had to say. I can’t believe you were able to snipe someone who was thoroughly defended. If the Sacred Knights delivered the proper image, the situation would have ended better. Isn’t that so?”

“I-it is.”

“Don’t think too deeply about it. We were not commissioned to disband the Wild Angels or to save the local residents. It was only one thing, snipe ‘Angel’.”

Browless, who sat with his crossed, stood up.

He made the atmosphere scary while he sat down!

Leeha wanted to tell Browless a joke, but he did not have the heart to do so.

‘That’s right……. It’s crazy to think it’s my fault. I couldn’t do anything!’

Browless held out his hand.


A celebratory sound came out when Leeha held the strong hand.

“Great job. If I have to give you one more piece of advice, wouldn’t it have been better if you were able to protect the village?”

“T-That’s right.”

“Haha, from acquiring information to returning safely. Congratulations on going through one perfect battle. You’re not just a musketeer, you’re a real sniper.”

Babam-!

『 You have completed Accuracy Enhancement-3: Comprehension Test 』.

『 You have acquired 1 gold. 』

『 You have acquired skill: Sniper. 』

『 Intimacy and Security in Candle Castle + 10%. 』

『 Fibiel Kingdom’s National Contribution + 90. 』

『 You leveled up. 』

“Thank you.”

Leeha felt his throat getting dry.

He was recognized as a real sniper, and passed the comprehension test. In addition, the reward was one gold! A skill that seemed to have something to do Sniping just based on its name and leveling up.

It felt like when he was a child, after receiving a comprehensive gift set.

It was indeed a quest with great difficulty. It was safe to say that it was the quest that he had put most effort in……

And hard work always returned a reasonable reward, like now.

“What is it? Training is now over…… Will you try Miss Elizabeth’s Will?”

“Yes? Ah! No, not yet.”

“Is that so?”


Browless put on a sad expression.

The quest for Miss Elizabeth’s Will.

“It’s good to be careful, but someone might appear in the meantime, so you have to do it quickly.”

“Haha, yes, director-nim! I understand!”

Another successor meant another musket user.

However, Leeha had not seen any other players while he was in and out of the academy.

Musket users are almost nonexistent, there was no chance that another successor would appear.

“It is obvious…… but, if another successor appears, will I be excluded from the next generation of Three Musketeers?”

“Yes, you will be excluded as a ‘candidate’.”

“T-that’s right I am still at the candidate stage.”

He needed to get the achievement to be acknowledged as the true successor. The quest so far means that people can enter and complete it as much as they want.

“I think you are the right fit.”

“What?”

“No, nothing. Then, there’s nothing to train for the time being. Do your best.”

Did he have no quest to give?

‘Well, my abilities are already too much compared to my level. There’s no way I would get a quest for a regular musketeer now.’

It meant that Leeha would need to clear Miss Elizabeth’s Will in order to get a new quest.

Leeha quickly understood Browless’s words.

“Ah! May I ask you something?”

“What is it?”


While contemplating where to hunt, an unfamiliar name came to Leeha’s mind.

It was only mentioned briefly, but Leeha remembered it. Because it was what Shin Nara said.

She said he should know the musketeer.

“Kidd……. do you know ‘Sleeping’ Kidd?”

If so, wouldn’t Browless know?

Leeha looked at Browless’s face. He was smiling.

‘Tell me if you want to tell me, what are you hiding?’

“You will find out when the time comes……”

It was not a answer.

He was not able to obtain any information even when he used the bargaining skill. The answer was so vague that he could not determine whether it was an NPC or a user.

Anyway, it was clear that Browless knew Sleeping Kidd.

‘Someday I will find out.’

In that case, the answer was not to care. It was literally, you’ll find out when the time comes.

“Hahaha, I don’t know what to do with this freedom after a long time.”

Leeha stretched outside the academy.

He was just chased by a deadline quest, and he felt somewhat empty when there was nothing like it.

“Ah, first, the stats! Character Window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 67 (28%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 27

HP： 2,870 / MP： 615

Strength: 73 (+58)

Agility: 566 (+171)

Intelligence: 83 (+52)

Constitution: 115 (+42)

Mind: 33 (+23)

Remaining stat points: 15

‘67……’

It didn’t go up much. After he caught the Brass Golem, it was only natural that he focused only on clearing the quest.

‘Thanks to the achievement of hunting roadrunners, my stats increased tremendously…… well, I will put everything into agility, there’s nothing to think about.’

Leeha did not particularly feel the lack of mana and stamina.

It was a huge event for a Brass Golem’s spike to miss, however, it rarely happened in normal hunting.

‘It was because of the quest content that I had to get closer.’

He neatly put everything into agility. Now that his agility was 581, it meant it was almost 600. Leeha smiled and opened the skill window.

『 Intermediate Musket Mastery (Passive) (Lv. 7) 』

『 Intermediate Calm Mind (Lv.3) 』

『 Beginner’s Bayonet Charge (Lv. 8) 』

『 Beginner Delicate Hand Movement (Lv. 9) 』

『 Beginner Eagle’s Eye (Lv.4) 』

『 Beginner Marking (Lv. 3) 』

『 Beginner Snipe (Lv. 1) 』

Two intermediate level skills.

And except for Exquisite Hand Movement, which was about to enter the intermediate level, all of his skills were beginner-level.

‘Combat skills are all…… Hmm, right, there’s stuff like bargaining and cooking as well.’

Leeha looked at the skill window and realized what he had forgotten.

‘It’s stupid. Haha, good. Let’s take a look at this skill first.’

And Leeha opened the description for Snipe.

『 Beginner Snipe (Lv. 1) 』

Description : Uses mana to strengthen the gunpowder and protect the barrel.

Effect : Increase maximum range by 30% for 1 minute.

Mana: 200

Cooldown : 1 hour

“Whoa, really?!”

“Aish, that surprised me.”

“I-I’m sorry.”

Passersby were startled.

Leeha’s cheers, filled with joy, echoed around the academy. And the joy was understandable.

‘Increase in range! Range! It’s only one minute, but a 30% increase- Oh.

The maximum firing range of the needle gun is approximately 350m. What if it was increased by an additional 30%?

‘465m! I can go over 400m……!’

For some, it would be a very useless skill.

Anyway, the range of a musket was fixed at 40m, and it was 52m when it was increased by 30%.

However, 30% was huge for Ha Leeha, who turned off the Combat Assistance System and used the musket to its fullest.

‘I tried to shoot with double or triple the amount of gunpowder… but now, I don’t have to.’

Leeha was worried on how to clear Miss Elizabeth’s Will quest. The simplest way to increase range was to increase the amount of gunpowder.

However, it was not as easy as it sounded.

If the amount of gunpowder was increased, the barrel would not be able to withstand it, or even if it does, the precision would decrease in the first place.

‘More than anything else, the problem with adding a lot of gunpowder is the chance that the musket would explode……’

If he measured the amount incorrectly, two bags of gunpowder would explode in Leeha’s face.

It was a risky way that could lose him his life and money .

‘I still have to practice a lot more, but at least I have found a way.’

Muskets rarely have a fixed range like modern rifles. It was also greatly affected by the wind and by a slight control of the gunpowder.

The range around 350m also had a lot of variations.

‘I need to keep in mind that I might only be able to narrowly reach 444m. It’s my first time using the skill, so I have to master it enough.’

It meant that he could not clear the quest right now.

“Haha, still! Still, this is it! Whoa!”

Waiting without rushing was also an answer. Leeha whistled pleasantly.

He went to the place he would go in 4 days with a smile. The capital branch of the Holy Grill.

(To be continued…)
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“This is crazy…… this is called the capital ‘branch’?”

The whitewashed stone walls soared to a height rare in Middle Earth.

Ordinary stores or buildings were 2 to 3 stories high.

If one wanted something a little bigger, it would be up to the 4th floor…… the Holy Grill’s capital branch was 5 stories high.

The “main store” in Candle Castle was just a single-story wooden building. It was hard to compare it to here.

“Wow…… What is this?”

“Is this what a new store opening looks like?”

“It’s surprising. Is this an update too? Is it on the homepage?”

“No. I heard that they don’t always tell users about the smallest patches.”

“What do they sell…… it’s so cool.”

The door was still closed, but the large building that was under construction was enough to attract the attention of surrounding users.

Leeha listened carefully to the noise of the chattering users.

‘Most users don’t know it’s a restaurant.’

He wanted to see the inside as well, but he couldn’t get in. As a noise-like sound was heard from the inside, the preparation for the opening ceremony was in full swing.

‘It didn’t just happen because of programming, it had been shown since the very beginning. What did the quick-witted users get? No, it is hard to guess with just a glance. I don’t know if there’s another case.’

In other words, if one did not have any experience in Middle Earth, it was impossible to know what the role and importance of a new store would have.

‘Anyway, it open in 4 days……. I have to level up first.’

Since it was 4 days in Middle Earth, it would mean it would be tomorrow in reality. Leeha did not intend to spend his day resting.


He had enough time to bomb Stone Golems and raise two levels.

“Well, where- huh?”

A few people blocked Leeha’s way, who was about to go hunting.

One, two, three. People snuck on Leeha from the front, back, and both sides without him noticing.

Leeha’s face distorted when he saw the familiar faces.

“Really…… you are quite persistent.”

Leeha remembered Kijung’s words.

『 It’s not that I don’t have the ability to catch them. I just leave them alone because it’s useless to catch only one or two of them. The only solution is to level so they won’t follow you. 』

Leeha started to feel it. In addition, the number of people increased.

This time, there were twenty people, and they diverse jobs.

If any of them was able to mark him, it would probably become more difficult in the future

“I told you, you can’t run away!”

“Do you really have to do this?”

Leeha asked.

“Do you know how much I lost because of you?”

“Do I need to know that? You guys were the one who started it! Besides, no matter how Rising Sun is, isn’t it a bit too much to be like this in the capital? You’re like crazy people.”

“I got a loan because of you. I won’t stop until I get it from you.”

The only person who sharpened his teeth was Tikal. His gear was better than before.

Did he get into debt to invest in in-game items? And the reason for all of this was to kill Leeha?

“You’re really crazy.”


Leeha sighed and said.

“If you rob me, will you be able to pay it off? Twenty people chasing after me… would it still be worth your time? Wouldn’t it be more productive to hunt using that time? Yeah, let’s say you’ve yield a hundred times and killed me a few times. Will you recover your money? Do you think I’m super-rich? Even if you rob everything I have, you will only get 50 gold. How much do you think it would be if you sold my items?”

Of course, 50 gold is a lot of money, it’s equivalent to 6 million won! However, with this money, tikal would not even be able to pay for his new equipment.

“……I will be able to kill you though.”

“Didn’t you hear what I just said? Calm down, man!”

“It’s not just about money, this fucking bastard!”

Tikal’s eyes lit up.

“It’s my pride! I will definitely kill you for that. And no matter how much money you have, I will take it all. Until you disappear from Middle Earth.”

There was sincerity in his quiet, muttering voice. It was enough to make Leeha’s back .

It was the determination to risk everything he had.

“It’s really crazy……. But think about how many times you will die in the process. The same for those people behind you.”

Leeha said to the man behind Tikal.

“If I start now, how many times do you think you will die? Calm down and live. How many times have you already killed me, and how many items have you lost?”

“W-what- you bastard-.”

“Go and play the game. Stop doing dirty things. Why do you do that in a game where there’s so much to do? I’ll say goodbye now!”

And Leeha tore a teleportation scroll.

As he disappeared in an instant, the twenty Rising Sun users stared blankly.

“Anyway…… he’s really spiteful. Well, if that’s the way they enjoy the game, I have nothing to say.”

Leeha pretended to be calm as he tore the teleport scroll, however, tikal’s slanted personality really got his nerves.

Besides, how frightening is the solidity of Rising Sun for them to follow Tikal like that.


Leeha guessed that it was possible for Tikal to pay for his debts after selling the items he stole from users, and the rest can go to his pocket, that is why it was hard to get out of the bog that was Rising Sun.

“Anyway, where is this?”

50-silver teleport scroll. If he used it toward a location recorded on a crystal ball, there would be about 10 seconds delay, but if he did not have any destination, the scroll would take effect immediately.

The problem was…… he would literally be thrown to a random location. It was also a very dangerous method.

If it was all over the continent without a specific radius, one could suddenly fall into a high-level hunting ground with a single scroll and die.

Or one could get to other countries or strange areas, that was why it was discouraged to use teleport scroll like that.

‘Next time, I will use the teleport scroll that only works in Fibiel Kingdom.’

The random scroll was 50 silver, while the limited range scroll was 90 silver.

When asked why it was like that, it was probably because it had stability.

“Well then……”

First, Leeha made sure that there were no monsters around and opened his map. Fortunately, his mark appeared on the map of Fibiel Kingdom.

It meant he was within the kingdom.

“Sentinel Mountain- Oh, is this near the watching peak?”

He was lucky.

It was a town with a relatively large number of players. It was a hunting ground players from level 80 to 130 orcs and trolls of various levels!

“Haha, the person who works hard would pick up money even if he falls down.”

Leeha tightened the musket’s shoulder strap and headed for the fortress city at the base of Watching Peak, berfort.

It was a city that provided quests to reduce the orc population and prevent orc villages from moving south.

Therefore, many NPC soldiers were deployed to block the orcs, but like all fortress cities, there were few guards in charge of security inside the city.

It was also the place one would stay for quite a long time if they leveled up while hunting on the common route.

“Tanker from Jaktoum village part!”

“Looking fora magician to go to Leor’s village, I don’t care about your attribute as long as you deal magic damage!”

“Archer looking for a party, level 95 Go go go.”

In a sense, there were more high-level players here than in the capital.

“For a bloody-looking city, there are definitely a lot of people.”

Maybe that’s the reason why those idiots do not come here.

Leeha suddenly thought that his armor looked pretty shabby.

‘Cough, I should change this soon. It has fire resistance and is a pretty good item, but……’

Although it had been repaired several times in the Tailor Shop, it was noticeable that its durability was not the same. Leeha rolled around so much to the point where it would be destroyed sooner or later, so it was time to change it.

‘Anyway, party play is too much for the time being……. I should go on a reconnaissance as well.’

The user’s level wasn’t shown, and orcs have diverse level distributions that it’s hard to attack them recklessly, so Leeha decided to find the weakest orc in Sentinel Mountain.

After Leeha listened to the shouts of users for a while, Leeha grasped the type and location of the orcs and set out on his own.

“It is obvious that the Sentinel Mountain is a tributary of the place where I caught the Brass Golem…. but the atmosphere is a lot different.”

It was only a rocky mountain covered with gravel.

In comparison, the mountain range he was at was as beautiful as any mountain range in Europe.

Leeha hadn’t gone there yet, but he thought that it would feel like this. There was even perennial snow, so the atmosphere was definitely set.

‘The level 70 Chain Orc tribe are the easiest opponent. Among them, the workers are in their mid-70s.’

Perhaps because the normal level for hunting orcs was at level 80, so the weakest Chain Orc tribe

Since its level was lower than users, there was no need to catch those orcs.

It was good news to Leeha!

He was already used to hunting in places where there were no users, and above all, if he wanted to practice the skill Snipe, it was better to have as few obstacles as possible around him.

And like that, he went out of Berfort and walked for about an hour. Leeha arrived near Chain Orc Village.

‘I would normally try camping somewhere nearby, but……’

Snipe practice is more important than leveling.

Leeha searched for a desirable location by alternately looking at the map and the surrounding terrain.

A place where he would be able to see the orc village and was around 350m away. And he wanted to secure safety, so there should also be no monsters around……

Although it was not easy.

Of course, if such a place did not appear, he would go for the next best option, give up hunting, and just focus on practicing his shooting.

Leeha headed to the back of the hill where the orc village was barely visible.

‘I-Is this too far away?’

Literally, the ‘village’ was visible. It was difficult to see the guys whose skin had the same color as the background.

At least, he was able to see the movement of the orcs’ legs, whenever they moved.

‘Orcs are large and tall, similar to an adult male. The movement of their legs are clearly visible and are within 500m…… about 400m. No…… about 410m? 420m?’

It was not something to laugh about.

Leeha loaded his musket and slowly laid down. One of the ways to increase range was to eliminate as much recoil as possible.

The bullet must be guided to receive the correct propelling force of the gunpowder.

“Phew……. If it had been my original rifle, I would have been able to hit the target at this level.”

Leeha was reminded of his military days. If it was the sniper rifle he used at that time he was confident that he would be able to hit 800m range.

However, his musket was not bolt-action, and its maximum range was 400m!

‘Ahaha, if I was born in the Napoleonic era, I may have lived a life of whining.’

If it was 400m away, it was quite difficult to guess who was standing in front of Admiral Leeha Sun-Shin in Gwanghamun.

It was a range that was 10 times more than a normal musketeer.

Leeha relaxed on the joke and put his cheek on the musket’s butt.

“Phew……”

First, I need to identify my goal. After looking at the village for a long time, he caught himself procrastinating again.

“Eagle’s Eye, maximum magnification.”

He only had one minute.

Within one minute, he needed to adjust the zero point, as well as measure all the variables.

‘Fortunately, there’s hardly any wind. It is perfect for practice.’

An orc carried something with a similar shape to his shoulder and sat down.

Was it trying to dig on the floor? His actions did not matter to Leeha.

The musket’s muzzle slowly moved towards the orc’s head.

Do not turn the gun too far. At maximum magnification, a slight movement made Leeha’s vision shake as if his eyeballs would pop out.

‘Aim for the head…… If I shoot like this, it should pierce his temple.’

The gun stopped. The orc stopped moving.

Leeha’s breathing also stopped.

‘Snipe.’

He felt the barrel flash for a moment, but Leeha didn’t look at it.

‘Calm Mind.’

It increased his accuracy.

It was a distance that he could miss with just a shake of pulling the trigger.

Baaang—!

A gunshot rang out, and smoke burst out. The orc bent and turned his head and body.

Piit-!

The bullet arrived 1.4 seconds after Leeha shot. In the area where the Chain-Orc worker was, gravel bounced off.

(To be continued…)
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“Hmm……. This is when the word ‘total crisis’ is used.”

Leeha’s face wrinkled.

“It wasn’t a direct attack, so I’m glad I didn’t attract aggro.”

Leeha dispersed the smoke from the gunpowder.

Leeha was worried that the orc might see it, but before the duration of eagle’s eye ended, he checked and found that it wasn’t even looking.

‘If it was going to miss anyway, I’m glad that it didn’t hit at all.’

No, it couldn’t be said that he was happy about it.

Although Elizabeth’s Will was a problem, Leeha was also worried that even if he could snipe from a distance, it would not be usable for hunting.

‘Above all…… the bullet’s speed is too slow.’

The speed of a normal musket was about 300m/s. In other words, the target had room to react at 400m!

The higher the level of the target, the greater their reaction speed would be as the distance increased.

‘However, even a guy like an orc worker was surprised. Damn it…… would it have hit if it didn’t turn around?’

Leeha shook his head. No, a headshot was impossible.

It wasn’t even close in the first place. It meant that the bullet was affected by gravity more than Leeha had thought.

“Ugh, I guess I need to practice more than I thought?”

It would be enough under the conditions where the wind had little influence.

He would be directly guided by Browless for the location of Miss Elizabeth’s Will. Unless the location was disclosed first, he had to assume unfavorable conditions

No, considering Browless’s personality… it is best to assume that it would be in the worst condition.


‘It would at least be a level 4 wind, I have to assume that there would be moderate breeze. It is necessary to consider a wind speed of 6 m/s when shooting a target 444m away……’

What about a full-length musket? Would it be enough?

Leeha thought it would be over quickly when he got the Snipe skill.

Soon, I will get Miss Elizabeth’s weapon, the Black Bass, and the achievement The Next Generation of the Three Musketeers! I will get stronger.

Bang-! That was what Leeha thought.

‘As expected, I can’t underestimate it.’

Of course, Middle Earth did not easily allow such a thing. Leeha was curious about other tests.

‘The fact that Browless’s and Brown’s muskets were already gone……. It meant that there were people who passed their tests.’

‘Elizabeth’s 『 Accuracy 』 test was to hit a target 444m. Then what were the qualifications for succeeding the Three Musketeers’ 『 Pierce 』 and 『 Rapid Fire 』? What training and skills did they receive from the test?’

“……Waaah!!! I don’t know! I don’t know! I want to complete it soon! Damn, 444m does not make any sense!”

Elizabeth you shit! Damned musketeer!

The movement of Leeha, which was struggling for a while, stopped and he stood up.

It was because he found a group of people running towards the chain orc village, no, to be exact, they were heading in Leeha’s location.

Leeha immediately recognized the ones without hood or cape.

“Rising Sun? That’s nonsense! Even here?”

“Found him! This way!” What was worse was the person at the front was Tikal. As soon as his cry rang out, all Rising Sun started running using their sprinting skill.

“What- no. Please do it quickly!”

It was not the time to be surprised. There were no users around.

Leeha hastily opened his bag and took out a return scroll.

“He pulled out a scroll! Space distor-.”


Poof.

“-tion! ……You fucking rat bastaaard!!”

Even before Tikal’s shout was over, Leeha had already used the return scroll.

After he saw Leeha’s figure flash and disappear, tikal shook his head and shouted.

“Let’s go back to Berfort! Don’t miss him! Use a return scroll!”

Yes!

Rip- Rip-

In an instant, twenty people disappeared from the Chain Orc Village and no traces of people could be found.

“Haa. Haa……. Crazy fuckers. Are they really out of their minds?”

As soon as he arrived at Berfort, Leeha ran. Rising Sun’s purpose was clear, so he had no time to waste.

It was obvious that they did not come here to hunt, and they were not aiming for other users. They came here precisely for Leeha.

In the past, Leeha would have thought it to be absurd, but not anymore.

‘Marking…… It’s such a troublesome skill now that I’m a target.’

It looked like the marking Leeha was worried about was used. Leeha knew because he used it when he chased Wild Angels. Perhaps Leeha’s figure was marked and is now on their map.

‘What should I do? What is its duration? I don’t know who marked me, so I can’t guess its level or grade.’

The duration of a level 4 skill was 75 hours. From the initial 72 hours, it was confirmed that the duration increased by 1 for every level.

How good was the one that was cast on him? If Tikal was the one leading them, then he should be one of the high-levels.

They should be around level 70 or 80.

‘At least 80 hours……. Or maybe 90 hours?’

Leeha didn’t know the maximum marking time, and even if he took the minimum time, he would still be exposed for 3 and a half days in Middle Earth time.


As he ran, Leeha looked back. Rising Sun users already appeared in the square.

‘I would have to hide somewhere, but it would be impossible if I am marked!’

How do I remove it? Is it a status abnormality?

However, it was already too late whether it was a status abnormality or not. He didn’t have time to buy a status ailment potion. Leeha recklessly ran to the warp gate.

“To the capital! Aelstock!”

“The capital of Fibiel Kingdom, aelstock. 1 person. The cost is-.”

“Catch him! Catch that bastard! Bind him before he could run away!”

“Waah! Send me quickly if it doesn’t cost two gold!”

He couldn’t even afford to get the change. Leeha ran into the magic circle with two gold coins.

It was crazy to PK in a village, however, tikal was that crazy, so Leeha couldn’t be too vigilant.

It was only natural for crazy people to do crazy things! The only way is to not let them do what they want.

“Quick! Please do it quickly!”

Leeha urged, however, the woman first checked and raised her staff slowly..

“Tie him up! Isn’t there any crowd controller?”

“Tenia is casting right now-! That’s it!”

“Binding!”

“I hope you have a great trip.”

Leeha felt his body getting tied and falling from the sky at the same time.

“Kwaaak!”

When Aelstock’s magic circle suddenly appeared in front of him, he regained his freedom.

Leeha, who managed to regain his balance, drew in a rough breath.

“Haa”…. Those guys……

I could definitely tell with how awkward It felt.

‘I used the magic circle…… And they targeted a person…… in a town!’

One couldn’t do that unless one decided to completely stop.

Was the Rising Sun’s pursuit this crazy? Or was it from Tikal’s madness? Maybe both? Even when Berfort was a fortress city with guards!

‘There’s no time to delay. I have to go to the scroll shop first.’

Leeha ran directly. Because of the guy who tried to bind him, rising Sun will be stuck at Berfort for a while.

They should appear in the capital after they are released by the guards.

Leeha purchased a bunch of return scrolls, random teleport scrolls within the area of Fibiel Kingdom.

“Haha, it is an honor to meet such a big spender again after a long time.”

Leeha spent so much that the fat owner of the scroll shop bowed to him. The return and random teleport scroll was worth at least 50 silver each.

And if it was a random teleport scroll within Fibiel, it was worth 1 gold. That’s 1 gold loss in one go.

‘This…… should I keep using it to avoid them?’

Leeha would not be able to hold out if he did not have an inexhaustible pocket.

If Tikal and the Rising Sun did not stop their pursuit, his stock of teleport and return scroll would be used up within the day. He would be left with nothing in no time.

Leeha immediately opened his friends’ list.

– Kijung!

– Yow. You’re in the capital? What are you doing not leveling?

– Rising Sun is very determined. They marked me and tried to kill me. They even cast a binding spell on me while we were in the town Berfort.

– What?

Kijung’s playful voice immediately disappeared. Leeha immediately brought up the main topic, and Kijung understood.

Kijung knew how serious it was to attack someone in a town. He asked in a firm voice.

– How many?

– There were roughly 20 people, their level is unknown.

– Wow……. Don’t go anywhere, just stay in the capital. Don’t go anywhere until the marking is released. If it was the Sacred Knights, they would kill the Rising Sun.

– Phew, what about the markings? How do I solve it?

– There were no scrolls and marking available in general stores. Only the wandering merchant named ‘Arkan’ deals with it. No, it seems that someone in the Royal Palace sells it, but it’s not something that you could buy in an ordinary town.

‘Grit’… Leeha clenched his teeth.

Because there was no way to immediately buy it. Leeha barely swallowed the words that he wanted Kijung to come.

At that time, he was outside, so he had no choice but to ask for help, but he was in town right now.

‘If I call Kijung here, it would interfere with his hunting.’

Even if Kijung came, it didn’t mean that the situation would change.

Then, did he have to wait for three days in the capital? He wouldn’t be able to practice shooting or ?

‘If not, I would be endlessly chased by them if I went out.’

He would incur so much financial loss with that. Whatever he chose, the future would be annoying for Leeha.

– Hey? Are you listening to me?

– Kijung.

– Yes. Say it. Should I come now?

As expected, he was a good guy. He had a good heart, and also a lot of worries. Leeha smiled unknowingly and proudly said.

– No, don’t come. It’s okay.

– What are you going to do?

– Haa…… Haa…….

Kijung’s voice faltered when he heard Leeha’s breathing.

– Hey, you’re not going to say that again, are you?

– Whether it’s now or later, in the end, I still have to come to a conclusion. I will no longer avoid them, Kijung.

– Hyung! Leeha hyung! Don’t think of anything weird! If you just stay quiet in the capital-.

Leeha grabbed his chest. He had enough skills. He had to try.

Kijung heard Leeha’s voice with more determination than ever.

– I will destroy the Rising Sun.

(To be continued…)
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– You can’t! I told you this before! It’s different from kids playing rock, papers, scissors! If the vice-guild master takes over, the situation will remain the same, there could even be a second and third Rising Sun-.

– No, Kijung. It won’t.

– Huh?

Listening to Kijung’s words, Leeha wanted to laugh. Of course, after he caught the roadrunner, Kijung’s words seemed correct.

However, he saw it when he fought Wild Angels after he destroyed the bandit group.

The fact that an organization would change depending on the presence or absence of an absolutely charismatic leader.

A bandit group made of NPCs in Middle Earth also collapsed.

Are any different?

Of course, there was no guarantee that Rising Sun would follow the same path, but through Browless’s training, at least Leeha would like to try.

Leeha wanted to say that to Kijung.

– I don’t know. Uh……. You would not know if you won the lottery if you even scratch it. Do you understand? Buy a lottery ticket…… No, if you expect to win without buying- huh?

– Eh? What are you talking about all of a sudden? What lottery?

– No, so- Why am I trying to explain why I can’t speak well…

– What do you want to say, huh? Do you even buy lottery tickets?

Apparently, Browless was able to explain it better in simpler words.

Hearing Kijung’s voice, Leeha scratched his head.

– Anyway! What I want to say is ‘I will only know when I try. Nothing will change if I only try to think about it a hundred times, but if I try it even once, something will change. Do you understand? I will do it. I have to do it to know. A ripple will occur when even a single pebble is thrown in the water. No matter how much you stare at a boulder, nothing will change if you don’t throw it in the river.

After hearing Leeha’s words, Kijung’s voice . Leeha waited for a while.


– I won’t be able to stop you, huh? Phew……. Then, you should register a guild.

– What?

– There are non-chaotic users in the Rising Sun, so you can’t kill them indiscriminately if you don’t want to be a criminal. After registering a guild, declare a guild war on the Rising Sun and fight them. In that case, the enemy guild members will be treated as ‘monsters’ and your chaotic index will not change. And since your experience will also increase when you kill them, you can level up at the same time.

– Kijung!

– It feels like I’m giving you permission. Haha, I’m sure you will do well anyway. I relax chill instead! The moment you declare the guild war, the only safe place from the Rising Sun would be the capital. The small town’s security won’t be able to stop those packs of dogs. No, speaking of guild wars, the guards won’t even interfere.

Kijung shared everything he knew with Leeha.

That was the reason why the Byulcho guild did not declare a guild war against Ram Hwayeon’s guild, with which they have a competitive relationship.

The capital was protected by the Sacred Knights, but not the other villages. In other words, the peace would disappear until the guild war was over, so unless it was irreconcilable, people generally do not go to guild wars prepare for mediation, compromise, or in the worst case wrap up the issue using underhanded tricks.

– It’s definitely a thorny road, isn’t it?

– Yes. Don’t blame me later for not warning you.

Kijung sighed from time to time and was worried for Leeha.

Although he was grateful for the concern from his cousin, Leeha was also disappointed.

– Right, thanks. And Kijung…

– Hmm?

– I only sit in a wheelchair these days, so you must have forgotten.

– What?

Kijung got nervous at the sudden change in Leeha’s voice.

When Leeha spoke so seriously like this, Kijung what kind of images he showed him.

– I’m a soldier. I used to be a sniper.

– Y-yes. Right.


He tediously received basic military, war history, strategy, tactics, and squad-level combat training, including survival training as a non-commissioned officer.

Their level in Middle Earth was high, but were there any Rising Sun who will stand toe-to-toe with Leeha in battle?

– Watch me. I’ll show you.

Kijung couldn’t even answer. He felt the intensity from Leeha’s voice.

“The creation of a guild……”

In order to escape immediately in case Tikal and his gang appeared, Leeha stood in an alley where the square could be seen and unfolded his map.

The moment he realized that it was really a ‘war’, all the knowledge he proudly told Kijung was put into play.

“Okay.”

Leeha the location on the map and ran straight away. His strategy would get exposed if he walked around with marking on him.

‘In other words, what I have to do now is to create a guild, declare war, and log out.’

He had to move as fast as possible. To prevent enemies from noticing his movements.

“I’m here to make a guild.”

In Middle Earth, a guild was a group of individuals who belong to a country and managed and controlled.

Simply put, it’s a concept like a company. Registration was extremely businesslike.

“You just need to pay the membership fee, the name of the representative, and the name of the guild.”

The procedure was completed when the female employee seated at the window entered the information on a piece of paper handed out.

There wasn’t even a test.

‘I thought that some sassy-haired ajussi would give me a quest or something like that. It’s like a government office.’

Leeha quickly filled up the information. The representative was of course himself.

‘Guild Promoter? Damn it, I’m making money with Middle Earth to fix myself. I can’t do it.’


Leeha talked nonsense while putting an X on the promoter.

Although his understanding was different, in the end, it was still correct.

There was no need to enter any personal information anyway. The guild master’s information would automatically register with Middle Earth’s system.

There was only one problem, the guild name.

“If I want to piss Rising Sun off, something like Horolol Heltech or Tuiyoing would be good…… If I make the guild name like rice cake, they might get careless. However, I don’t like it very much.”

Still, Leeha wanted to avoid naming the first group he belonged to, or even the group he created by himself, in an odd way.

‘Rising Sun, rising Sun……

뜨는 해(Rising Sun). Literally, the pattern of the Rising Sunrise. It was often used as a war crimes flag in Japan, and it was a painting that was particularly disturbing to East Asians.

Judging from the shape of the Rising Sun and the name of the guild master, it must be related to the guild mark of the Rising Sun guild.

‘Right, the Rising Sun is the Rising Sun. You mean the sun is rising, don’t you?’

How do I deal with a guild that was created with that in mind? There was one name that came into mind.

Leeha quickly wrote down the name on the piece of paper and submitted it.

“Are there any duplicate name-.”

“There’s none. It would cost 10 gold to create a guild.”

“Ahh……”

Sighs of joy and sorrow escaped from Leeha’s mouth at the same time.

Why was it so expensive? Instead of putting a particular limit on the level, they put a limit on the money instead.

Leeha grumbled and opened his wallet. After selling the Brass Golem’s shield, he didn’t have that much money.

‘50 gold for the scrolls and bombs, 10 gold for creating a guild……. Now, I only have 20 gold left.’

His military fund was only 20 gold. With only 1 soldier. The Rising Sun’s guild master would not even snort if he heard this.

However, Leeha was reasonable.

“Here it is. And I would like to declare war on a guild”

“The name of the opposing group.”

“Rising Sun.”

“Rising Sun?!”

Stop.

The eyes of the woman who received the document became round.

Seeing Leeha’s figure, she was taken aback for a while.

Because Rising Sun’s level was surprising for that NPC.

“I will check again. Is the name of the organization receiving the guild war declaration ‘Rising Sun’, where the guild master is Kyokujitsu?”

“Yes.”

Leeha nodded. If one knew the name of the guild, the name of the guild master would be shown anyway.

“Ah, I see. If so I will send the declaration of war. It will take effect in five days. Please sign.”

Five days in Middle Earth time. In other words, it would take effect in 24 hours in reality.

Leeha’s name was written in the document presented by the woman.

The guild war was so serious that he was asked for consent until the last minute.

Naturally, the surrounding users were likely to be noisy.

“Rising Sun?”

“Is that person declaring a guild war against the Rising Sun?”

“Amazing……. Why? Didn’t he just create a guild?”

“Tsk tsk. It must have been quite a while. Another person is going to quit the game.”

Leeha left the office, leaving behind the people that took a quick glance at him.

‘Right, it is only natural to think that way. For now at least.’

Leeha opened his newly created guild window, checked the name and status of the guild, and logged out.

The guild battle would begin 24 hours from now.

In a building made of dark gray bricks. The walls of the hall, covered with huge bearskin carpets, were illuminated by a magician’s light magic, and delicious food dazzled on countless tables.

In the ballroom-like atmosphere, the gathered people laughed, chatted, and enjoyed their seats.

“Next is this week’s best FM (Field Manager)! Indeed, who is the team leader who succeeded in making the highest amount of sales this week?”

Dugudugudugu, drumbeats were prepared, improving the atmosphere.

People who were enjoying the food put their hands together like microphones and started shouting.

Whoaa–! Give it to our team! Meisook Team!

Who would be higher than us?! Tenia Team! Tenia Team!

“Yes-! Etrol Team! You have obtained a special grade one-handed sword around level 95! The estimated price is a whopping 270 gold! Not only for this week but also close to the current month’s highest! Now, fM and the Etreul team, please come forward!”

Ah~ Sorry~!

That’s amazing! How to surpass 270 gold!

Etrol, you’re so cool! Etrol Team forever!!!

A user and his teammates being dazzled by people’s cheers and admiration.

Thundering applause in the atmosphere gave them a feeling of validation.

“Thank you for your efforts.”

“I-It’s thanks to the branch manager.”

“You’re very humble……. I wish you all the best in the future.”

“Thank you!”

Etrol politely shook the hands of the director who presented the plaque, as if it were the hand of God.

They went back and the Headmaster nodded, and the host raised his voice again.

“Okay, next! This week’s best FBA (Field Battle Agent)! Who is the victor in the fiercest battle this week?! If you win 5 FBAs, you will get a spot as an FM! The hero of that glory——?”

Drumming sounder again. How surprised would users be if they saw this place that was full of cheers, shouts, and laughter?

Just looking at the patterns engraved on their items and the image of the rising sun, would make them shiver.

『 Rising Sun 』.

This place was part of the weekly award ceremony held by the Rising Sun guild.

It was a process to motivate and inspire members of the guild by measuring the number of items looted during the week and publicly rewarding them….

For the users who lost their items, it was just ridiculous, for Rising Sun guild members, it was the place where they gained their strength to live for the week.

(To be continued…)
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While the award ceremony was in progress, a whisper was sent to the branch manager.

– This is an urgent message from the head office. It is said that a declaration of war has been sent to us.

– Declaration of war? What kind of bastards are they?

The branch manager was barely able to resist his desire to frown.

He was at the place of festivities right now. He shouldn’t give the impression of – T-that’s… There is no information whatsoever. It is also the first time I heard of the guild…….

– No information? What’s the guild’s name?

– It’s called 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』.

It is the appearance of ‘Setting Sun’ to deal with the ‘Rising Sun’.

– Mwahahahaha, what? 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』? He’s a fucking crazy guy. Isn’t the guild master Clint Eastwood?

– No. The guild master is Ha Leeha……. There’s also no information.

– Ha Leeha? Ha Leeha… Oh, that no一

The branch manager stopped talking.

– Do you know something?

– No, no, no. Let me know when you find out anything.

– Yes. We will update you as soon as we gather information. There are still 24 hours left in real time until it takes effect, so take care.

– Oh. Good luck.

The branch manager stopped whispering and presented the certificate of commendation to the best battle agent of the week (FBA) on the podium.

Even as he smiled and shook hands, his mind ran endlessly.


‘Ha Leeha……. Isn’t that the bastard FM Tikal was targeting ?’

Now that he thought of it, the branch manager did not receive a report of the results after that. It’s been a while since they were out, however, he had not been contacted yet?

‘Hmm. Well, whether it’s that bastard or not, if he declared war and we crush him, we can get extra points from the president. If I make a little more progress, entering the headquarters would not be a dream!’

It was really advantageous to be ahead in information.

The branch manager planned to call Tikal as soon as the award ceremony was over.

‘I don’t know who Ha Leeha is, but I can’t let him go until I get a screenshot of deleting the character. He dared to go against us? Our branch will finish him.’

Regardless of who the enemy was, the branch manager was confident that he could crush them before the head office sent out their command.

Now! Everyone, let’s forget about work and enjoy to our heart’s content! To our Rising Sun’s Fibiel branch and our branch’s endless development ——!”

Everyone raised their glasses to drink.

It was only one of the branches of Rising Sun that Leeha had to deal with.

About 300 people gathered for the weekly award ceremony of the Fibiel Branch.

—

‘Okay, the timer is set.’

The timer was set a little shorter than the time in which the declaration of war was set. It would be nice to live without logging out at the same time, but he couldn’t.

‘I’m at a disadvantage because of the marking anyway. It’s best to connect after the marking is gone.’

Leeha estimated that it would last for more than three days in Middle Earth time, so he decided that he could access the game at 10 a.m. the next day.

So, would he spend his evening going to bed? Of course not.

Moving in front of the computer, the first thing that Leeha did was collect information about the Rising Sun.

“The information of those wicked bastards could not be easily- … it’s here. What, these guys even made a website?”

Aren’t they just bragging about it?


It wasn’t just on the level of a personal blog, it had a neat design and layout like a “Corporate Homepage”.

From the greetings of the guild master, Kyokujitsu, to the history of Rising Sun.

Leeha was thrilled to see how it was decorated as if it was a leading corporation.

“There are screenshots too. They really revealed all their information.”

Leeha did not understand.

Why would Rising Sun reveal all the screenshots taken by their guild members?

Screenshots are not just pictures.

If one was familiar with Middle Earth, one could estimate roughly what the Rising Sun users wore and which area they were in.

In other words, they could expose their weakness…….

While he examined the screenshots and checked the users’ item status, Leeha found a picture taken 3 weeks ago.

And he knew very well where Rising Sun’s confidence came from.

“Party to commemorate the 6000 members of the guild?! What……!”

Six thousand people! It was clear why the rankers and other guilds did not touch Rising Sun.

If there were 6000 people in a single guild, it was not a number that could be controlled unless some kind of system was established.

The number of people who was so large that they it…….

“Aren’t they crazy? Six thousand? No matter how many users are below level 100…… Six thousand?”

Leeha fell into panic for a while but came to his senses again.

He could not believe the number six thousand.

What was his now? And if he understood the nature of those six thousand users, he had nothing to be afraid of.

‘There were those who played the game for a long time, however, most of them played the game like a side job in order to make money. No, if it’s Rising Sun, I think that would be the majority.’


There may be six thousand people but the elites would be few. Most importantly, what Leeha should do was not to fight 1:6000.

‘I need to disrupt Rising Sun. My only goal would be to completely avoid the pursuit of those crazy people, including Tikal. I don’t have to fight six thousand people.’

Click, click While going around the website

Leeha found another Rising Sun’s pride.

“Winning record”

There were one or two people like Leeha. Burning with revenge, there was someone who created a guild and rushed to the Rising Sun.

And Rising Sun showed the pain of defeat that all those people went through in their website.

At the same time they posted the character deletion verification screenshots and the items they vomited out one by one.

‘Evil bastards……. In the first place, they started stealing items with PK, so why would the victim delete their characters? Besides, did they list down the items that the person spat out to increase the pain?’

There really are gangsters like these.

Leeha found a photo of Tikal in the screenshot board and ground his teeth.

Leeha wanted to kill him again and again until he quit the game, however, it was a pity he couldn’t do it.

‘I have to be sure. While using every resource available.’

Leeha scraped everything about the Rising Sun, moved around the Middle Earth community forums, and prepared for the initial work.

Riiiing, riiiing!

His preparations did not stop until the next morning’s alarm rang.

“Okay, let’s go.”

He did not get tired even though he just stayed up all night. Leeha’s eyes burned with excitement and tension.

—

“Waah! What, this was a restaurant!”

“That’s crazy! A restaurant this big?!”

The two users raised their heads. It was a building that could be described as perfect!

“I’m sorry, sir. Today is the opening ceremony. Could you come back tomorrow?”

“Oh, is that so?”

“Yes. I’m sorry.”

The woman at the entrance bowed her head with a smile full of regret.

“I won’t be able to come anyway because …… let’s go.”

“Okay.”

A private opening ceremony which only invited guests could enter. However, the Holy Grill was so crowded with people, that it was embarrassing to call it private.

Of course, most of them were only at the entrance, and no users would force their way into the restaurant that had Sacred Knights as their guests.

Another user moved to the entrance of Holy Grill. He wore a mask on his face.

“I’m sorry, sir. Today is the opening-.”

“I know.”

The user quickly raised his mask to reveal his face. As he whispered his name, the woman’s face quickly widened.

“Welcome.”

The mask-wearing user bowed lightly and entered Holy Grill.

The long stick hanging from his back caught people’s attention, but the fact that he went in was more surprising than his outfit.

“How did that person get in?”

“Is he an NPC? Aren’t there only NPC inside?”

“Was there such an NPC in the capital? Is he a wandering merchant or something?”

Leeha only took his mask off when he could no longer be seen by users and the users’ bewildered voices quieted down.

“Phew. Good. I didn’t get caught.”

As soon as he connected, Leeha wondered if there were Rising Sun members waiting around, but the worst did not happen.

‘Was the answer to log in after 3 days? I have no choice but to match this timing anyway.’

The opening ceremony of the Holy Grill.

It was practically a meaningless quest, a simple quest, but Leeha did not want to miss it.

He was curious to see what it was like. To eat at a restaurant? It wasn’t like that.

Leeha sat down in the corner and watched the of the people.

Especially the woman who wore a fancy dress and chatted while surrounded by guests.

The woman held a cocktail glass, noticed Leeha, and started walking slowly.

“Oh my, Ha Leeha-ssi. You have come.”

“Madam Ju. Congratulations on opening.”

“Oh, what congratulations. It was thanks to Ha Leeha-ssi. Thank you for coming”

“If it’s because of me, of course, it that ‘everything’ went well, right’?”

“Of course.

‘If ‘everything’ didn’t go well, there’s no reason to open such a big store, right’?”

“Then please help me. As the head of the Intelligence Guild in the capital of Fibiel Kingdom.”

“Hmm, I like hard things, but I don’t like the way you talk.”

Phew-.

Madame Ju blew hot wind into Leeha’s ear.

If it was usual. Leeha would have made a fuss while shouting ahhhh.

It was also what Madame Ju expected, however, Leeha did not do anything.

“It’s important.”

He just looked into Madame Ju’s eyes.

A startled look flashed across Madame Ju’s face, but a soft smile immediately replaced it.

“Follow me.”

Leeha nodded as Madame Ju took the lead.

The two went inside the Holy Grill building. They climbed up to the top floor of the tallest building in Fibiel, royal Palace.

(To be continued…)
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“Wow, the Intelligence Guild has an image of a shady, dark basement or something like that……. But what kind of penthouse is this?”

“What are you talking about? We’re not thieves, and since we are allowed to do business with confidence, we don’t have any reason to go underground.”

“Of course not. Haha.”

Leeha deliberately wandered around the office.

‘The only people who went to the top floor are Madam Ju and I.’

However, there were people around, and quite a few at that.

Invisibility? Stealth? He did not know.

Anyway, Leeha was relieved when he felt the weak presence.

With this much, they can be called the Intelligence Guild the capital.

“What are you curious about? I don’t have time, so speak quickly.”

“Okay. Then-.”

“Ah, nothing abstract. Eheu.”

“C-Cough. Yes, I know that.”

How would he ask Sun? There was no way he could answer that question.

At least, Leeha who wanted to ask about it at least once coughed.

‘Specific things. Then something about the Rising Sun.’

‘Could they tell me where the guild master of the Rising Sun is? No, it isn’t a fight that will end I kill one person.’

‘So do I have to keep killing Tikal? It’s also the same.’


‘I’m not fighting with a single person. I am not fighting 6000 people, but I am fighting a group of 6000 people.’

It was the same, but also different. Leeha asked the question he prepared for Madame Ju.

It took less than a minute to get the answer from the head of the Guild.

It was more detailed than Leeha expected.

“Oh…… I thought you would only give me information, but isn’t this on the level of giving me the correct answer?”

“You’re welcome. It must have been information that fits with Ha Leeha-ssi’s plan. We didn’t give you the answer though.”

“That’s right. In a sense, it is the answer. Thank you, madam Ju.”

“Why don’t you say hello to the people who came? There are quite a few people from the Royal Palace.”

“Of course.”

It was impossible to not hold ancestral rites after seeing the rice cake.

Anyway, it was a place where Rising Sun couldn’t come in. In order to organize his thoughts, Leeha decided to get acquainted with other influential NPCs.

—

“So…… are you saying you missed him?”

“Y-yes, branch manager.”

“Hmm, I thought FM Tikal’s skills were pretty good. You have high intentions. But this is it- if you miss the one who declared war at the headquarters then…”

“I’m sorry, branch manager Donyoku.”

Tikal bowed and looked into Donyoku’s eyes.

There was no noise the last award ceremony. There were only four people in the large hall. The space that was full when there were 300 people seemed desolate.

“But he is not normal. He already seemed to know about the marking.”

“Huh?”


“He did not log in while he was marked. As soon as he saw us in the Sentinel Mountain, he didn’t panic and immediately tore a return scroll……”

“Right. If he’s a range damage dealer, then he might know about marking. Did his job have a rifle?”

“Yes.”

“Hmm.…”

Donyoku stroked his chin

다. He rubbed his thick chin as he processed Tikal’s words.

‘I heard there’s a job called musketeer……. How did such a bastard escape Tikal?’

He also looked through the entire list of battle agents that Tikal, a field manager, who was like an action leader, took .

Tikal’s estimate of Leeha was a level 50-60 gunslinger.

Donyoku couldn’t believe it.

‘I clearly remember that a gunslinger has garbage-like accuracy and reload speed. Isn’t a gunslinger a musketeer? If it’s true, should have been dealt ranged-dealers and one magician. Additionally, Jaco from the head office was dispatched, and they still failed? Aren’t they all idiots?’

Was Tikal worse than a trash gunslinger? An ignorant bastard that was old and couldn’t even play games! He wanted to curse Tikal, but Donyoku held back.

Because Tikal was the person who donated enormous amounts of assets to Rising Sun and made his position as a branch manager shine.

“Jaco must have been very angry. The information about Ha Leeha must have already spread to the head office.”

“That’s not going to happen, donyoku-nim. Jaco-nim is more interested in Shin Nara than Leeha, so he is taking a look at that.”

“Shin Nara? Hmm, is that so? So you’re saying that information about Ha Leeha didn’t spread to the head office?”

“Probably.”

“Good. Then our branch will give it a try.”

“Yes?”

“FM Tikal said that we shouldn’t share information with other people and try to crush 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild with our branch. FM Tikal, no, sFM (Special Field Manager) Tikal will be managing it.”


“SFM?!”

“I will tell the head office. You have been through a lot, and you’ve been doing well, but you didn’t get promoted all this time? Let’s take this opportunity to build up your achievements at once.”

“T-Thank you! Thank you, branch manager!”

Tikal bowed his head to Donyoku.

SFM, in a branch of Rising Sun, was the second-highest level after the branch manager.

SFMs could have 5 FMs under their command. One FM usually carries 10 up to 20 FBAs under them, so now, tikal can have up to 100 fighters.

“However, if we don’t raise the flag first, your promotion would get canceled……. You’ll have to figure out another way to please the executives at the head office”

Get Ha Leeha. If you can’t catch him, you have to give your money to the people at the head office.

Tikal immediately understood.

“I understand.”

“Now gather the kids.”

“Yes.”

Following Donyoku’s instructions, the vice-branch manager, personally convened the FMs, and whispers spread in an instant, like an emergency contact network.

Usually, it took less than 30 minutes for the members of the Rising Sun to assemble after the emergency order was issued.

“Cough……”

“Cough.”

But Donyoku, deputy branch manager, tikal and a bodyguard waited in the building for about 30 minutes, however, no one came.

“T-they seem a little late today.”

“Right. Are you sure you contacted them, deputy branch manager?”

“Yes, yes. Of course. Let’s wait a little longer”

When Donyoku gently turned his head, the deputy branch manager sweated profusely.

After, they were late when it was something important.

However, the deputy branch manager’s efforts were in vain. After that, another 15 to 20 minutes had passed, still, no one came.

“Deputy…… branch manager?”

“I’ll call them again. This, well.”

As Donyoku’s eyes narrowed, the deputy branch head hurriedly began to whisper.

And after a while, his face turned blue.

“B-Branch manager.”

“What?”

“The FMs that were coming to the branch got hit.”

“Where? By who?”

Donyoku and Tikal’s expressions hardened.

FMs were basically people with a lot of money. Like Tikal, had the ability to buy good items.

In other words, they were not someone who could be beaten easily. How could those who are ready to run away at a moment’s notice to escape even if they were ambushed?

“Are they dead? The FMs? Then, try to contact the FBAs directly as soon as possible!”

“T-That the FMs are dead, I mean-.”

The deputy branch manager opened his friend’s list and quickly searched for names.

As an SFM, he only needed to contact the FM. Even he couldn’t remember them all.

“How about the remaining FM? Are they all dead? How many did they get?”

“Ah, now- please wait a minute.”

The deputy branch manager’s face, who had been whispering through the list of members in a hurry, turned white this time.

“In front of the building!!! They are fighting in the branch office! The FMs who suffered were also attacked in front of the branch office-.”

“What?!”

Everyone stood up. The same thought popped into their minds.

How did he find us?

The location of each branch was a secret place that was not shared even between branches?!

“G-get your gears! If that bastard attacked, we need to take care of him. Hurry up, sFM Tikal!”

When Donyoku screamed, tikal and the other personnel rushed out.

Donyoku felt cold sweat running down his back and was relieved that this was a game, not reality.

“Where is he! Where!!”

“Gather up! Tankers, ready your shields!”

“Gather together! Don’t move!”

They looked everywhere, but Rising Sun’s fighters could not do anything.

The Fibiel branch office was one of the buildings in an abandoned village at the foot of a small mountain.

The building, which had previously been used as a meeting place for this small town, was erected in the .

Therefore, it was open all the way to the office. There was no place to hide, not even trees.

Even though the office building was clearly visible in front of them, they barely covered themselves by hiding behind other broken pillars.

“We only have to run 50m! If we go inside the building, what could he do?”

“Do you know how many enemies there are? You don’t even know who it is!”

“Then why don’t we escape and go to the branch office? The branch manager is inside so we could tell him! I’m leaving!”

A user hiding behind the fence snuck out.

The pride of being undefeatable in terms of movement. He was an ultra-close-ranged fighter who had learned the technique of cutting the muscles of users and monsters using two daggers!

Ttak-!

Before he could walk five steps, the user fell to the floor.

His body began to turn gray in an instant.

“Again! He died again!”

It’s not even a skill, what the heck is it? It only sounds like popping popcorn!”

They couldn’t even put their heads out, so they did not know. The fear of the unknown spread among the users of the Rising Sun.

They were all level 60, and some of them were close to level 80, but this was the first time this happened. Magic? No, it’s not magic. In the case of magic, a voice would be heard! It’s not to say it was impossible.

It was possible to cast on close range if the attackers used invisibility magic, but that wasn’t it either. Invisibility magic would be canceled once they attack.

If so, who was the enemy? No, it was something else.

“Player…… is it a player? What boss mob is it? Field boss?”

“Since there was no risk, we chose this place as our office!”

Ttak-!

There was a hole in the head of another warrior.

It wasn’t like he moved his body.

It was just that the pillar was not thick enough to cover his entire head.

How many centimeters was his head stuck out of the pole? Anyway, he was now just a piece of grayish meat that dripped with blood.

“Damn it! Who the hell are they?! Are they rankers? Are the rankers touching our Rising Sun?”

A lot of people have died already.

They should have left first. Although they knew it was too late to regret, the members of Rising Sun regretted it.

‘When I saw the corpses, I should have ripped a return scroll without looking back! Or we should have told the branch manager right away!’

They didn’t know how many FBAs died while they hesitated to try and solve the problem on their own.

Ttak, while their colleagues were fried like popcorn with the sound, the only thing those from the “great” Rising Sun guild members could do was to tuck their heads and shiver.

Finally, their savior appeared. As soon as the door opened, a sound was heard.

Ttak-! The sound of popcorn popping rang again!

“Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha is nearby! Hurry up, raise your shield and run!”

Tikal raised his voice behind the deputy branch manager’s shield.

“What?”

“Hurry up! Right now! It takes time to reload so hurry up! The one who declared guild war on us is here!”

The body movements that were built up in the organization did not go anywhere.

Even though they felt their lives threatened, all users of Rising Sun moved their feet toward the brand office.

“Go in! Quickly! Quickly! When everyone is in, close the door!”

Even Tikal did not know where he was shooting.

However, thanks to the experience of dealing with Ha Leeha, his life was saved.

Under his direction and the branch manager, the scattered members of the organization entered the building and Tikal closed the door.

As he closed the door, he could see a cloud of white smoke rising from the distance.

‘Is he there……? No, that’s nonsense. He is great, but he shouldn’t be able to shoot from that distance.’

It was not the time to think such useless thoughts. Tikal quickly closed the door.

(To be continued…)
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“Phew… As expected, those who were beaten before would know what to do. Isn’t he responding pretty quickly?”

Leeha’s eagle’s eye magnification was reduced and he raised his musket.

Camouflage glue was stuck in his head and body, and his face was smeared with camouflage cream.

Leeha looked like a real sniper.

‘I don’t know who they are, but I took out 10 people.’

It didn’t matter who they were. What Leeha aimed for was indiscriminate guerilla tactics against Rising Sun. He didn’t know that Tikal belonged to this place, but it changed nothing.

Because nobody knew that Leeha was a long-range sniper.

“Put your head in like a turtle. In the meantime, let’s see what call you make.”

He couldn’t stop the corner of his lips from going up.

Leeha opened his map and placed an x mark where the location of the Fibiel branch was.

On his map, the information on all the locations of the Rising Sun branch that he received from Madam Ju was marked.

And of course, all the locations where he could shoot the office from 180-200m away.

‘Wouldn’t it be over, once there’s a hole in the dam? It’s a game of whether I cut the hole first or you cut the hole first.’

At 200m distance, no gunshots could be heard.

To be able to hear this and distinguish it as a gunshot, one must be a professional shooter.

In other words, for those who have no experience shooting, it would only sound like popcorn popping.

‘They won’t be able to know who, where or how……’

Clak, Leeha pulled that ball off the musket.


‘I’ll sweep you all away.’

—

They thought they heard a rustling sound, but they couldn’t see Leeha.

On top of the perfect camouflage, they didn’t know his attack range.

The strongest and worst musketeer in Middle Earth began to make a name for himself.

“J-just now, did you just say it was Ha Leeha of 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild, sFM Tikal?”

“It probably is.”

At Donyoku’s words, tikal nodded his head. But the FBAs did not agree with him.

“No way. Didn’t team leader Tikal say that he’s level 60? Really, don’t you have to play a lot to reach level 70? How can his range be that long at that level?”

“Right. Unless he’s a ranker……. I can’t believe it.”

“Well, it was all in one shot.……. They all had their heads pierced to death.”

“We need to inform the head office as soon as possible, branch manager! If it’s too late, we will all die!”

Rising Sun was like a lion with expensive items among low-level users, but now, they were like rabbits.

As Donyoku saw them clench their teeth and panic, he was displeased.

“Calm down and think straight. There are about 5 guilds that are at war with Rising Sun right now. Four of them are actually guilds with only their names left. There’s no guild members belonging to them and the guild master deleted their characters and the situation ended. As soon as they respawn in the village, they were killed immediately. You know that, right?”

Everyone nodded at Donyoku’s words.

“And the only remaining is Setting Sun Desperado guild, which declared war a few days ago and no one else.”

Donyoku’s words carried weight.

The enemy was not a ranker.

The eyes of the Rising Sun members began to come to life again.


“He’s probably a rich guy, right? So he must have been our target, and that’s why he’s trying to get revenge. Of course, he could have bought some unique items with that much money.”

“Are you talking about how he could attack from a great distance like now?”

“Right.”

Donyoku rubbed his thick chin with a satisfied expression.

“Unless he is Prince Aram, his money will run out someday……. We can catch him ourselves. Let’s believe in the ability and power of the Fibiel branch, which is one of the highest-paid Rising Sun .”

‘So become my limbs and work hard, slaves. Run yourselves to the ground so that you can send me to the head office!’

Without knowing Donyoku’s inner feelings, the Rising Sun members nodded their heads as they listened to his seemingly reasonable .

“As expected of branch manager-nim!”

“Right. It doesn’t make sense for him to be that strong. It seems he bought some disposable items with money.”

“Haha, will you also upgrade us to FM if we catch him?”

“Sure. Of course. So let’s all do our best.”

Donyoku smiled kindly.

While everyone had their wills burning, only Tikal rolled his head coldly.

Was that really the case? Was Leeha able to spend money?

‘That bastard said that he had no money……. He said 50 gold was all he had. Actually, his items did not really change, except for the item that I dropped. But now, he bought items with a lot of killing power?’

It made Tikal’s eyes roll when he thought of Leeha, but that was the reason he could stay clear-headed.

He avoided marking, but declared war and counterattacked when he got back.

“Branch Manager–”

“SFM Tikal will build a team including the temporary FMs…. Quietly catch Ha Leeha.”

“–It’s not that, Ha Leeha probably-”


“Quietly……. Quietly catch Ha Leeha. Faster than the other branches.”

Donyoku lowered his voice and focused on Tikal.

Tikal’s eyes glistened as he read Donyoku’s thoughts.

“Ah, I understand.”

It seemed like Donyoku thought like Tikal as well.

It meant that Ha Leeha was not in a state where he could fight with just a few items.

‘He isn’t just sitting in the branch manager’s seat……. Even knowing Ha Leeha’s extraordinary abilities, he pushes his members to the limit.’

The branch manager thought that he had to make sacrifices to catch Ha Leeha anyway. However, donyoku’s name didn’t belong to the list of victims.

—

Leeha did not even use a return scroll. He did not even stop by villages and only traveled by foot.

He also walked along the mountain road and avoided all the places where he could encounter users.

‘I could see why armed guards only go through mountains. It’s okay for me to eat and sleep after I log out.’

It was inevitable to waste time as his area of movement increased.

Fortunately, Leeha shortened it a lot by running non-stop, but he was a bit disappointed.

‘If I had a crystal ball. If I could save all the sniping locations of the 20 Rising Sun branches through a high-end crystal ball…… I could literally sweep them away like Hong Gild-Dong, move through east and west. It’s just absurd now.’

Most importantly, there would be no financial gain killing Rising Sun villains like that.

The distance was too far to loot.

‘I can’t help it. But where can I gain experience? Haha.’

After he opened his map and checked his location, Leeha sat down.

About 190m ahead, there’s also one of the abandoned villages.

However, this time, the safe house was not the size of a meetinghouse, but of a pub.

‘It’s an abandoned ruin after the second Human-Demon war, did they aim to create a village like this near the monster spawning area?’

Was it to make users buy a safe house?

He did not know if Middle Earth it that far. There was no need for Leeha to be in these things anyway.

‘Eagle’s Eye.’

Although it was 190m away, it was the same as looking at it 19m away Leeha.

The first thing he checked was if there were any hidden users around. Although they had offices, rising Sun branches do not meet every day.

However, the awards ceremony and other events were held differently for each branch.

All of it was posted on the Rising Sun’s website.

‘That’s why you shouldn’t disclose information so recklessly. You can immediately tell what time of the week it is.’

There were three things that stood out in the office. The number of people who arrived and entered one after another caught Leeha’s eyes.

According to Leeha’s calculations, there were around 150 people in this branch.

Of course, he didn’t plan on a breakthrough head-on, but right now, everyone was careless.

‘Everyone comes from the same place. There should be a magic circle over there, or it must have been the place where the location is recorded in the crystal ball.’

Of course, it was easy to move around. And comfort became a habit. It became a habit without them realizing it.

“I call that a weakness. Good wind direction, wind speed and posture, ready-!”

Leeha smiled and pulled his index finger.

“Action.”

Baaang—-!

He was pretty used to it, but still, a loud gunshot hit Leeha’s ears. One guard fell.

‘Okay, that’s one! Delicate Hand Movement.’

He reloaded quickly. It’s probably on the other side-! They might be curious about the strange sound.

Three guards scattered around the pub.

Therefore, they did not know that a new airway had already been pierced on the neck of one of the guards on the other side.

‘Two!’

Leeha pulled his index finger again. Red fountain gushed out from one of the nearby guard which immediately turned gray, it lessened the gruesomeness of the scene, however, if one saw it nearby, the scene would have been nauseating.

‘I won’t be able to eat seonji haejangguk today.’

30 seconds of reload. Rising Sun members had detected the anomaly. The sight of guards shouting caught Leeha’s eyes.

‘No, don’t. Don’t give instructions to others. Three!’

Another gunshot rang out. The face of the third guard disappeared.

As they were about to enter the office, other Rising Sun members ran away from the mountain. The natural reaction when one experienced the fear of the unknown was similar everywhere .

‘And the more they show their back, the easier my job is. They’re like raccoons!’

Click, he pulled his index finger again.

Should I go behind the fence? Should I go behind the wall of another house? The back of the hesitant player got pierced. Four.

At least 10 people can be caught before the Delicate Hand Movement skill is over.

He fired at another user who took the wrong direction.

‘Five! Six! Seven!

Every time Leeha pulled his index finger the body counts rose one by one.

Perfect one shot one kill! It was not an exaggeration that Leeha was the ideal example of a sniper.

When one looked at it, although it looked like the party involved was only mechanically reloading and shooting, it actually required skills.

“That’s eleven, and the twelfth is- huh?”

Then, a person caught his eyes.

The Eagle’s Eye skill was over, so Leeha couldn’t see it properly, but his clothes alone made him distinguishable. An outfit that looked flashy no matter who looked at it. It was magician series, and it was a luxury item!

The magician was busy talking, and pointed his fingers here and there. Then, he pointed at the direction where Leeha was hidden.

‘As expected, mages have a good head.’

He must have realized that the shooter aimed from more than 100m away.

There were already 11 casualties,

and gunpowder smoke rose above Leeha’s head. It made sense if one thought about it rationally. The most conspicuous area was where the smoke rose!

However, one should not think of it that way. From the victim’s point of view, it was unnatural.

And the beauty of sniping is, making people believe that it’s not natural.

“And there’s something to be particularly careful about…’

He poured the gunpowder into the muzzle

Inserted the iron bullets.

He held the musket with both arms and struck it at a rock-! And he completed his reload.

Leeha lowered his gun slowly.

“You can’t yell and give directions on the battlefield, sir.”

Hoooo…….

He controlled his breathing. He roughly shot the others, but not this one.

Haaaa…….

He quietly cast his skill. Calm Mind.

His forearms and shoulders hardened. He could instinctively feel his accuracy rose.

Baaang—!

“You shouldn’t make yourself standout! If you do, your head will explode. Saluting to superiors is also prohibited in a battlefield with snipers.”

『 You leveled up. 』

(To be continued…)
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“B-Branch manager! Branch Manager!!!”

“The branch manager got hit! The branch manager got hit!”

“E-Everyone, don’t go out! Hide now!”

“Damn it! What were the tankers doing that they did not protect the branch manager?!”

There was great chaos near the branch office.

The branch manager’s death! The one thing that should never happen in a branch. The Rising Sun members shouted, they were desperate and bewildered, like believers who had lost their leader.

“Ranged damage dealers, get over there quickly! Run! Run according to the branch manager’s last instructions!”

“Hey you idiot, I will die if I go out, so how could I run?”

“What? Idiot? This bastard doesn’t even care……!”

“Doesn’t care? I’m an FM like you, what are you talking about!”

It was a of fear, panic, and anger overwhelmed one another. However, the members were afraid of out because they did not want to get sniped by Leeha.

The deputy branch manager shouted and tried to stop them, but the situation had already started to get out of control.

As they quarreled inside, white smoke no longer appeared in the distant mountain. It meant that the attacker left, however, the Rising Sun members did not know that.

“What kind of bastard attacked? Was he a ranker?”

“Fuck, how would I know? Those magician bastards pretend to be smart, but they can’t even use detection properly?”

“How do I know that he can’t be detected! The manager died!”

“What? Fall behind?! This bastard, there are things you can and can’t say about the branch manager!”

No one cared.


The fact that a guild had declared war had spread, but it was a common thing.

So no one could have predicted that in a span of one day, an unknown guild attacked the South Fibiel branch, riverside branch, east Fibiel branch, amois Mountain branch, and the Emerald Jungle branch.

Among them, three branch managers, two deputy branch managers, and at least four FMs were killed.

No one could have predicted it.

Naturally, there was no reaction from the internet either.

Rising Sun was a large group with more than 6000 members, so it could be said that even if Leeha killed them all day long, it was on the level of a drop of water in the ocean.

However, what if he continued the indiscriminate killings for one, two, or three more days?

Members of Rising Sun, who were helplessly attacked, without being able to grasp Leeha’s attacks, had no choice but to limit their activities.

Only then did the Middle Earth community finally detect the anomalies.

『 Title: Doesn’t the beginner hunting ground seem to be quiet these days? 』 I feel like the number of people decreased in the beginner’s hunting ground, and I don’t see anyone fighting =«=〉

– The Kobold village is slightly quieter.

– I guess the influx of new players in Middle Earth is over now. I think you’re the lowest level in Middle Earth…

– Ah shit, is that so?

That’s stupid talk, no. The number of subscribers was still growing.

At first, there were a few views and comments, and it was just a simple chat post. The ‘Ri’ from Rising Sun, did not even appear in the articles.

However, as time went by, articles like “Something changed, but I don’t know what” began to appear.

There were fewer people in certain hunting grounds.

Rising Sun even announced that they would come to steal items, but they didn’t . Then a newbie passed by a ruined village and saw a bunch of corpses…….

As the small snowball rolled and rolled on for a week, 10 days, or a fortnight.

『 Title: Is it true that Rising Sun is going crazy right now? 』


『 Title: Get the video of the Mage of the Cloud 』

『 Title: It definitely seems like 『Setting Sun Desperado』 is a ranked guild. 』

『 Title:The Japanese community is exploding too, they are talking about Rising Sun all day long 』

『 Title: I saw the video, where he is attacking. Is it true that an operator intervened? 』

The community started to get dominated by posts related to the Rising Sun.

“Oh…… haha, look at the reactions.”

Leeha enjoyed the situation with great interest.

It was not bad. In order to shake up the Rising Sun members, it was necessary to make 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 look possible.

‘This is nonsense.’

『 Title: It seems 『Setting Sun Desperado』 had entered the rankings. 』

It is said that the guild master is Ha Leeha, but he is not in the top 10 right now. He’s also not in the top 500 ranking list previously surveyed by the US. It seems right for an archer ranker to sit down on the road and shoot his arrows.

– Did you not watch the video? There are no arrows on the corpses.

– Isn’t it a gun? I heard a crackling sound.

– Are there guns in Middle Earth?

– Even mages carry shields =•=〉=• But still gets killed. You won’t be able to do that if you’re not a ranker.

– 『 Rising Sun 』 is getting dealt with by 『 Setting Sun 』…… phew…….

– A =1 =1 Yes.

Two things happened after what Leeha did. He showed his strength and hid his identity.

It was what Leeha expected when he planned the indiscriminate sniping.

“Hahaha, there are drawbacks to being famous…. ah, so good. I like the nickname they gave me.”


Leeha clicked on a video of his activity.

『 Title: Get the video of the Mage of Clouds 』

– How do you attack from there? It’s 2 minutes long, but the impact!

– Kya, the Rising Sun’s head exploded, it’s like an FPS game.

– Wherever he went, only two things were left, 『Death』 and 『Clouds』…

– If you’re a tanker, isn’t it possible to survive getting hit? What the fuck are you doing to die in one shot?

– I- Instakill. If you get hit in the head, you die.

– A head explodes whenever the cloud blooms? Is it an aim hack? No, before that, the range is that far?

Leeha’s video quickly became a hot topic. It was taken by a Rising Sun member, who was getting attacked.

In the video, in the chaos reminiscent of a battlefield, white smoke rose from somewhere in the distant forest.

The members of Rising Sun collapsed near the videographer whenever new smoke rose.

It was a short video in which the vision of the videographer suddenly turned off while running to avoid the unknown attack, but the impact was different.

It was a 2-minute long recording, and users with their level in the 50s and 70s had their heads explode! Because they exploded.

“I haven’t been caught yet.”

Of course, Leeha was right.

However, what about Leeha’s appearance? Invisible!

He was at a distance where even his silhouette could not be seen even if one zoomed the video as much as they could. First of all, he was hidden with a Ghillie Suit, so it was hard to find him even when one was near, let alone in a video.

The attack range and the overwhelming power of one-shot-one-kill were hard to imagine for ordinary users.

When Leeha’s video started to spread on the internet, it was natural for him to be given all kinds of nicknames.

『Mage of Clouds 』, 『 God’s Hammer 』, and even 『 Operator 』.

However, the Rising Sun did not take any action. Are they just ignoring it? That would have an impact on their ‘sales’. At the very least, they should have a detached force…

It was Leeha’s 15th day of terrorism, and Rising Sun certainly reduced the number of their branch gatherings. However, they should have grasped Leeha’s location to some extent by now. It even came up with a video.

If so, there should be some kind of reaction from Rising Sun, but Leeha did not encounter anything.

‘Well, it’s fine if they act like that. Slowly, the organization would collapse once their members left, as if it’s dying.’

No mass departure happened yet, but what if the strength of the name Rising Sun disappeared?

There was no reason for the members to be the Rising Sun if they can’t go around stealing other players’ items with PK.

‘The moment your members leave, you’re finished.’

Leeha had a sly smile.

—

“As a result, each branch’s income decreased by 43% on average compared to the previous month. In the case of branches with fewer members, there is a 70% loss, which is expected to have a huge impact on our business in the future-.”

“Director of Planning.”

Y-yes! President. Yes. Please tell me.”

As the profound voice spread, the reading the report written on the paper hurriedly bowed their head.

“Why do you think I called a special meeting for the branch managers?”

“Yes?”

“The number that comes out when you tap on the calculator, is like my blood- no, have I gathered you here to talk about our money disappearing?”

“O-of course not. President Kyokujitsu-nim.”

About 25 people gathered in the dark room.

It was the guild master of Rising Sun, Kyokujitsu, and the branch managers of each branch.

( To be continued…)
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Just by gathering in a dark conference room with no lights, showed how much fear they felt from the ‘invisible enemy’.

“How can we catch that bastard? How! I called you here to make a plan!”

Bang-!

Kyokujitsu’s table shattered with a roar. It was a strength that was released while seated.

Of course, it was only possible because it was Middle Earth, but the branch managers flinched.

“South Fibiel.”

“Yes, president!”

“You said it was the first branch that got attacked?”

“There- that-.”

At Kyokujitsu’s words, donyoku stood up sweating. From Petal Kim to Tikal, all of them were, in fact, from the South Fibiel branch.

Moreover, taking advantage of Tikal to hunt their target had not yielded any significant results yet.

“Besides, only South Fibiel has a small decline in performance. Minus 6%? It’s almost nonexistent compared to the others. What happened?”

Did you suck up to that bastard? A nuance like that was only natural.

Because Leeha had not attacked the South Fibiel branch since the first day. The 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild did not touch the South Fibiel branch to the extent that other branches secretly cursed Donyoku and Tikal.

“O-our special FM Tikal is working hard to catch the bastard named Ha Leeha. We had a plan to deal with Ha Leeha, because we have fought him the most, but our branch no experts to deal with him-.”

“Phew, branch manager Donyoku? What is our motto?”

“I-It is ‘If you want it, take it!’.”

“Then stop making excuses. Our great Rising Sun is shaking right now. I want that bastard’s life. Do you know what I mean? If you want experts, you don’t have to tell me, you just have to take them away. Understood?”


“Yes-!”

Donyoku bowed his head in obedience.

A corporate culture that transcended the company. The motto of Kyokujitsu, who advocated for himself, was a culture so thorough that it was applied even between the branch managers and directors.

“Director of Planning.”

“Yes, president.”

“Give the maximum support from the head office FBAs to the South Fibiel branch.”

“Head Office FBAs?”

“Yes. Isn’t it the role of the head office to help when the branch is in danger?”

“I understand.”

Usually, other branch managers would object.

Giving South Fibiel the fighters from head office meant giving Donyoku the chance to crush 『Setting Sun Desperado』.

But now it’s not ‘as usual’. Too many losses have already occured.

In other words, it meant that if he did well, he would get praise, and if he didn’t, his opportunity was over.

Now it was time to do well. If he couldn’t…?

“Branch Manager Donyoku.”

“Yes!”

“This is the last time. Take Ha Leeha’s screenshot within a week. ?”

“Thank you!”

After barely swallowing his saliva, donyoku bowed his head once more. If he combined the strategy Tikal had in mind, with the experts such as Jaco, there was definitely a chance of winning.

“I’ll get information myself.”


“Information…?”

At Kyokujitsu’s words, the Headmaster of Planning tilted his head.

“I’ll go to those guys. I think they should roughly know information about someone who uses an unusual weapon.”

“Those guys…… are you talking about those spy bastards?”

“Even those guys are useful sometimes. I hope the other branches follow branch manager Donyoku’s plans for the time being. Our most important goal is catching Ha Leeha. Does everyone understand?”

Yes-!

As Kyokujitsu stood up, the room was filled with a gigantic silhouette.

He needed to be careful of how he moved because he was the giant race. With his monster-like skills, he could hide his body anywhere.

“Then let’s go, director of planning.”

“Yes.”

Soon, the two of them disappeared using space movement. In the dark room, only the branch managers were left.

“I’m sorry branch managers. I have a plan, so please help me. We should be able to finish it in 3 days.”

Branch manager Donyoku began to talk.

Everyone didn’t like it, but they have the same goal. They wanted to eliminate Ha Leeha, however, they wanted Donyoku to fail as well.

The South Fibiel branch was an area close to jackpot even within Rising Sun.

Rising Sun’s full-fledged counter-attack, tangled with greed, was being prepared.

—

‘Where have those bastards gone? I can’t even see their shadows.’

Leeha opened his map and drew a small x at his location, in the western part the capital.

He was at the location where he could see the third branch office, and have a sniper’s vantage point at the same time.


It was the second location he selected where he could shoot the Rising Sun members looking for him at his first shooting location. Unexpectedly, he .

‘They would have to look for me everywhere. Are they not looking for me? No way…… There’s no way Rising Sun would stay still.’

Tikal even took a loan, in order to catch him. Rising Sun was a place where such people gathered.

In a relationship full of grudge and revenge, they will make him pay until the end.

‘Then they would definitely come……’

Leeha waited. At least one would definitely come. He only needed to catch one, move to a nearby beginner hunting ground and shoot the guys who are in ‘business’.

‘Have they already moved closer? One of the places to go from here…. hmm?’

As he was messing around unfolding his map, a man suddenly caught Leeha’s eyes. The person wore a cloak with the Rising Sun symbol on it, as if he was wearing the Rising Sun’s flag.

‘Right, I knew you’d come. Wearing a cloak with a design like that so shamelessly.’

Can someone do that unless they are genuinely Japanese? Leeha let out a deep sigh and quickly finished reloading.

It was understandable that many of the Rising Sun users were Japanese.

“I don’t have a personal grudge, but you must have brought tears to others as well, right?”

There was no mercy. It was only taking revenge.

Baaang—!

The Rising Sun user collapsed with the gunshot.

‘I got one, now next is-.’

Boom.

‘-huh?’

And Leeha saw. A light purple transparent membrane enveloped the sky. Space lock magic was activated.

“What?”

He was stuck in the huge boundary unprepared.

“I found Ha Leeha!!! Run!”

Rising Sun users, who had been hiding everywhere, began to run out. They were running .

They ran toward the white gunpowder smoke, it was the trace of shooting that could not easily be erased.

‘A detached force?! That’s not a normal group! They’re here at last!’

Leeha looked toward the Rising Sun members that came out from all directions.

Their color was different from the level 50 to 80 users he had seen so far.

Most importantly, it was not an ordinary detached force because he saw someone familiar in it.

“30 seconds! He has a 30 seconds pattern! All mages cast your shield on Jaco! If he doesn’t hit you in the head, you won’t die instantly!”

“Understood, tikal-nim!”

Tikal and Jaco ran wild even when wearing clogs and countless mages supported them.

“Jaco! Is that him? He really killed our FBA in that spot?”

“Y-yes! He was the guy with Shin Nara, ichiban-nim!”

Jaco shouted out his throat and spoke respectfully. Leeha found that the situation was not as good as he expected.

‘Of course, there’s Tikal, and there is someone from the head office who is higher than Jaco!’

Even Jaco was an expert that was at least level 100. He was a swordsman who used great skills.

Then what about the person higher than Jaco? In a situation where it was not 1-on-1 Leeha had close to zero chances of winning.

‘As expected, they were close to the first spot. If that’s the case, then I’m going to get broke after this.’

People appeared from Leeha’s previous sniping spot. Unless they had predicted the third spot, it was natural that the rear would be empty.

Leeha threw the Ghillie suit and started running up the mountain.

“Oh, that bastard is going up! Shoot! Shoot!”

“Not yet- it’s not close enough yet!”

“Shit!”

The ranged-dealer next to Jaco pulled the bowstring, but their distance from Leeha was more than 100m.

It was not a range where he could shoot right away. Most importantly, Leeha’s speed was not any slower than those around the level 100.

“Stop, Ha Leeha! If we catch you, we’ll kill you!”

“Waaaah-! ”

“You’re crazy Tikal! Do you think I would stop if you talk like that?”

He did not look back to save time. The route Leeha followed was for situations detached force appeared.

Leeha’s movements were faster than the Rising Sun members who had come up from the bottom of the mountain.

“You can’t run away anyway! We have thoroughly blocked space to chase you! You’re done once you run out of stamina!”

Hearing Jaco’s shout seemed to bring out laughter.

It’s over once my stamina runs out?

“You think I don’t know that? I can still run without stamina! Idiots.”

Although it would not be a long time, the distance between those who walk and those who run would widen.

This was the reason why Leeha could be relaxed even when it felt like he was playing hide-and-sick with his life on the line.

“Puhahaha! Right! That’s it, Ha Leeha! That’s what I want to hear!”

“What?”

Leeha heard a terrifying laugh behind him, who was running through bushes.

“Do you think we don’t have that achievement?”

“No way…”

Those who know the joy of running. An E+ level achievement is obtained by running while depleting the stamina 10 times in a row. Rising Sun head office fighters of level 100 or higher are likely to have it by default.

“You look funny, Ha Leeha.”

“You’re crazy!”

Papapat-!

Their pace got faster and faster.

Leeha’s investment in agility made up for the gap in level, however, some fundamental difference was unavoidable.

They were now running downhill, on flat ground.

“Haa, haa-! Damn this bastard. ”

They were close enough that their footsteps could be heard.

50m? 40m? Leeha’s instincts told him

that he might get hit by an arrow if they caught up a little more.

“There’s no use in surrendering now! I will tear you apart! For Rising Sun’s sake, no, for my sake!”

Shoo-!

As soon as Tikal’s shout was over, an arrow flew.

As soon as he heard the eerie sound cutting through the air, Leeha bent his neck and managed to avoid it.

“Damn it, get out of the way! Move!”

Leeha shouted towards the users that blocked his way.

The people headed to the dense forest were about to light a campfire. The forest was large with densely-grown trees that seemed to reach the sky

Leeha glanced back and went right into the forest.

“Wah? W-What? What passed by?”

“Amazing……. What happened? Rising Sun is also in the back?”

The beginner users could not hide their flustered expression as they saw Leeha pass by as Rising Sun chased after him.

They wondered if the Rising Sun members were aiming for them, the beginners. Rising Sun were experts.

They didn’t seem to be after them.

“Why did they come here?”

“Well. It’s amazing. Shall we shoot a video?”

“Hmm, we should go and ask the community. What even is happening today?”

This was the western area of the capital, where the beginners gathered. Rising Sun, who was chasing after Leeha, also saw the great forest.

“W-What is that?”

Because of the densely growing trees that seemed to fill the space, not even an inch of the inside of the forest could be seen.

The darkness that to rob them of their sight was ominous.

“Here is……. T-the Lightless Forest!”

“Huh? Lightless forest? What’s in there?”

“There are bats and spiders”

Tikal quickly answered Jaco’s question.

“Bat- huh? Aren’t these level 20 monsters? Ah, over there.”

A place too old for users level 100 or higher to remember properly.

(To be continued…)
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Jaco looked like he was about to burst out laughing. Stupid bastard. The place he ran away to had level 15 monsters at best.

It was shameful to even say it was ominous.

If even one person from their group went inside, they should be able to exterminate all the monsters inside…

“Did you decide your own graveyard, Ha Leeha!”

Jaco raised his voice as much as possible, but he did not receive any response.

“Ichiban-nim, I think we can catch him here.”

“We’re going to catch him here?”

“He has few places to escape in the forest. Locking up the space and convening all the FBAs here should be enough…”

“Hmm, how many FBAs can we call now?”

“I have received authority directly from the president. We can call all the FBAs from any nearby branch.”

As Tikal bowed, ichiban laughed.

“Haha, great. Tikal, proceed with your instructions.”

“I understand.”

Tikal looked at Jaco and Ichiban alternately and whispered to Donyoku.

All FBAs near the Lightless Forest are ordered to convene!

Scrolls were continuously used to maintain the space lock magic, and the Rising Sun members scattered and began to cover the forest.

“23 minutes after Ha Leeha entered the forest, 531 Rising Sun FBAs were called. Head office FBAs, including Ichiban-nim and Jaco-nim, should assume the role of deputy commander. 20 groups consisting of 25 players each form assault groups and go inside. Unit commanders, let each other know your location and narrow down the encirclement. The rest of you, wait outside with me.”


Tikal shouted, he felt so proud that he got carried away. Although the forest was quite large, it was not impossible with the number of people they had.

“Operation name: Surefire Search and Destroy Formation will start now.”

They can finally kill Ha Leeha.

“Light!”

Boom-!

A sphere of light floated in the air with a simple cast from a magician.

Low-level mages might not be able to cast them carelessly due to the fear of the mana-vampire bats, however, it was not a problem for them.

“The forest is quite wide.”

“That’s right. It’s a low-level hunting ground, but with how wide it is… We might get lost.”

“Spread as wide as possible. As you already know, he uses strange stealth. It’s not a skill so you need to keep your eyes open and look for him with your eyes.”

“Yes!”

It wasn’t just Jaco. The FBAs from the head office were certainly experienced.

The rising sun assault team, which consisted of 20 groups with 25 men each, moved quickly and formed a siege network 15m apart from each other.

“Does he think he can hide in the dark?”

“Couldn’t he have logged out?”

“Haha, he’s already in combat. The moment an arrow flew and touched him earlier, he could not log out.”

Log out was only possible peaceful status. The FBA, who heard Jaco’s words, was greatly impressed.

‘Where are you, Ha Leeha… The sunset that dares to block our rising sun…’

To face our Rising Sun guild with the name Setting Sun.

Even just by hearing that name, Jaco’s anger couldn’t be reduced.


He didn’t expect someone to shit on the Rising Sun’s name, who has a reputation for organizational management among users in Europe and U. S..

“It’s honorable even when you get robbed. I will make you writhe in such pain that you will bite your tongue to death.”

Grrt, Jaco grinded his teeth, if Leeha was in front of him, he would use every way to make his death as painful as possible.

10 minutes after they entered the forest and narrowed down the encirclement. No traces appeared yet.

“Is he still in the forest?”

“He can’t be detected by magic… He had not yet logged out because whispers can get through to him. The space is also locked.”

“Hmm…”

Where is he? As many as 500 people were gathered and formed and encircled the entire forest.

If it was an ordinary person, they would have tried to escape because they wouldn’t be able to overcome the pressure.

‘Did he give up? Is he going to die from this?’

If so, did Leeha choose this place because he didn’t want his death to be seen?

“Hahaha, bastard…. You must be ashamed.”

“Yes?”

“No, nothing. Keep moving.”

“Yes!”

The more they moved to the center of the forest, the denser the trees became.

Due to a large number of people, and the momentum they exuded, the spider swarm that covered the ceiling did not come down.

Of course, it was only because of the level difference between the monsters and the users that they gave up in advance.

Thanks to that, the got darker.

More than 20 minutes had passed without anything happening.


The distance between the Rising Sun members, which was around 15m from each other, had been reduced to 10m.

The first gunshot rang out since they came into the Lightless forest.

Bang—!

“Hmm?”

The goal was to remove their sight. When the magician fell in a single blow, the light magic disappeared from the air

“I-It’s the bastard! Everyone stop! Get down!”

Jaco lowered his head.

“Heup! Open your eyes!”

“Get down until your eyes have adapted to the darkness! Everyone, get down!”

The combatants hurriedly lowered their postures at Jaco’s command.

But that was it. Jaco was not able to find any traces of Leeha anywhere.

‘Where? Where? How?’

No smoke was visible. There was no flash of gunpowder.

In a forest where trees densely grew, he was able to shoot at a distance where his location couldn’t be seen?!

“It can’t be, the trees are in the way-.”

Baaang—-!

“Uh.”

Jaco grabbed his ear and lowered his posture again.

A scream was heard again from somewhere, and the forest grew darker.

“Another one? He hit another one, again?”

Only the mages who used light too? Is he shooting to extinguish the lights?

“Where! Where are you, Ha Leeha!”

“Jaco-nim! Screaming is dangerous!”

He was not far away. He was definitely nearby, but they couldn’t catch him!

“Damn you, you bastard!!!”

A gunshot was heard in the Lightless forest, and the sound was even louder.

Since it was impossible to find Leeha’s location through sound,

and they were unable to see smoke, he was truly invisible.

“Jaco-nim! If you do that, I will die-.”

“Stay still! I will report to the president that your death was great.”

“Uhk-!”

Jaco grabbed a nearby Rising Sun member and put them in front of him.

“Show yourself, Ha Leeha! Where are you shooting, you coward! Come out! I’m going to rip your limbs off, come out!”

Human shield!

In fact, while Jaco was using his teammate as a shield, ‘tok’, something fell on Jaco’s head.

“Huh?”

Red light flashed dazzlingly from the object that fell to the floor after hitting his shoulder.

Tssss-

“Shit…”

I see. He’s above us.

Jaco was a master of battle. This, Leeha knew. That is to say, he can’t be left alive.

“Pu, pu, pu, puk.”

Baang—!

In the Lightless Forest, a fire broke out.

“Waaak!!!”

“E-explosion! There’s an explosion!”

“M-Magic casting! Where is he-.”

The encirclement of the Rising Sun was disrupted by the light from the explosion.

Most importantly, they felt the worst fear as they could not see the surroundings properly.

‘How did he just cast like that… When one fights in the dark, one needs to blend into the darkness. The moment you ignore light control, you’re just a target for bombardment.’

—

Tsk, Leeha clicked his tongue and lit several bombs in succession.

The Rising Sun’s numerous combatants did not care what was ‘above’ them.

‘Haha, there’s a reason why I only went to the West Fibiel branch recently.’

It was what he intended. He also predicted that they would form a detached force.

Leeha was a little embarrassed because the detached force was bigger than what he had expected, however, it did not matter.

Even if they were FBAs from Rising Sun’s head office, they were only experts in combat, they would not be able to beat Leeha in war and strategy.

Tikal and Rising Sun members predicted that Leeha would reappear in the West Fibiel branch, so they wanted to chase him by giving him bait, however, that was also Leeha’s intention.

‘The first order in war is to decide where to fight. If you only trust your head and run blindly, I will be disappointed.’

While looking at Fibiel’s map as if to draw it in his head, he found the best place, the Lightless Forest.

Additionally, there were few general users who would be on the way. There are quite a few beginners but they stop hunting at night.

In other words, what if he brought the detached force there, while the sun was about to set?

It meant that it was the best way to show Leeha’s skills.

“Heup.”

He threw the bombs as far away as possible. In order to not get caught, he threw the bombs here and there.

Bang-!

The bomb that cost 4 silver each, indiscriminately spread flames and noise, easily destroying the Rising Sun’s group.

“Catch him!! Detect!!”

“Light! Use light! We need to find out where he is!”

“I will cast it now!”

“Don’t cast! You must not!”

“What? B-but Deikoku-nim -.”

“Hey! Cast! We have to be able to see to fight! It can’t be like this!”

They didn’t know who died and who lived. It was a situation where the command did not belong to a single person but was delegated to each assault leader.

There were people who wanted to cast light and others who wanted to prevent it.

As they were busy taking care of their troops, the command system of Rising Sun fell into chaos.

What would happen if they try to sloppily cast like that?

Mana gathered in the bodies of the mages. And mana shined.

“They’re my food.”

Bang–!

This time, a gunshot rang out. A new hole was pierced through the magician’s neck.

“Damn it!! Where are you! You doglike bastard!”

They did not have the time to look at the sky in the dark.

The Rising Sun combatants, in complete chaos, finally began to go crazy.

“Wahah!”

“Kahak-! You crazy bastard! What if you stabbed me!”

“Haa, haa, I can’t see! I can’t see!”

“It’s me! It’s me! Don’t attack!”

They swung their weapons at the sound of a breaking branch or stone being stepped on. Of course, their allies were right around them.

‘Five hundred blind people spread out in this vast forest… It’s not 1:500, but more like 1:1 times 500. Besides, they can’t even see me…’

Tsk–…….

‘It is unavoidable for them to suffer like this.’

A spark erupted at the place where it struck someone’s shield.

Leeha once again threw his bomb with all his might. He threw it exactly towards the small spark he found.

Boom—!

“Kahak!”

Leeha wanted to smile at the sight of two bodies turning gray from a single bomb. If it wasn’t for the white light emitted from his body.

『 You have leveled up. 』

“Amazing… I didn’t think of this.”

“Above!!!!! He’s up there!!!!!”

“What a bastard!!”

The heads of all Rising Sun combatants looked up. They saw Leeha sitting comfortably at a wooden pillar 7m high…

“Oh……. Haha, can you please see it as a level-up celebration?”

“Kill him!!!”

Of course, it was impossible.

(To be continued…)
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“Shoot! Everyone shoot him! Bring that doglike bastard down!”

The warriors screamed as they did not know how to get up there. Hearing the aggressive words, the ranged dealers and mages clasped their weapons.

“Die!!”

Shoot, shoot-!

Arrows soared, rustling the leaves. However, it did not pose a great threat to Leeha, who was stepping onto a thick wooden post and branch.

‘It’s a place where even light can’t pass, however, to try with arrows…’

Besides, it was not right to shoot when they were in such an excited state.

Leeha quickly stepped onto a branch and ran, grabbed onto a which he had previously installed and moved to another tree.

“You, you idiot! Catch and kill him!”

“Is he Tarzan, that bastard!?”

Leeha did not give in to the insults and received them with a smile. He had a relaxed expression knowing that Rising Sun was dancing on one’s hand.

“I’m not Tarzan, but I can burn you to death. For example-.”

Chiii-…….

“Like this.”

“A-Avoid it! It’s dangerous! If you get swept away, you’ll die—”

Kwaaaaang—!

Another bomb went off. How many people died with each explosion?


The more confused people are, the more they get together. Now that there was confusion everywhere, the 10m distance the Rising Sun had maintained disappeared.

So many combatants died that Leeha leveled up.

‘But there is still a lot.’

More than a hundred people have been incapacitated in battle however, the battle raged on. It could get dangerous if they found a way to reliably secure a light source.

Leeha made a brief pause. Quickly and accurately…

“Let’s run away!!!”

Leeha’s speed increased.

When the trees dense, it meant that the distance between the trees was narrow. It was close enough that he could reach it if he ran at high speed.

“H-He’s running away?”

“Catch that bastard!!”

“Light up! Shoot him with fire arrows, you bastards!”

However, they couldn’t see properly.

Obviously, they could hear the sound of pounding and jumping on the trees, and they could see a faint human figure, however, they couldn’t catch Ha Leeha who was running away!

“Light up!”

Boom, when a light sphere finally appeared in the Lightless forest, a smile appeared on the faces of Rising Sun members.

They still have 300 people remaining, and their only target appeared.

“Chase him!!”

In other words, they had nothing to be afraid of anymore. They gave up the encirclement and everyone started running.

Meanwhile, fire arrows, wind cutters, bolts, and arrows danced through the air from time to time, however, none of them reached Leeha’s body. They were unable to shoot Leeha with untargeted magic.

“Waaa! I think I’ll get caught like this! It would be dangerous to climb the tree!”


“Tree……? Kuoo, Ha Leeha you bastard!! All assassin classes gather! Climb the trees! He was able to climb! There must be a rope somewhere”

“H-here I found it! There’s a ladder!”

“Go up and chase him! You’ll move faster if you climb the tree!”

“Hat-!”

At someone’s command, users wielding claws or daggers gathered one after another.

Thirteen people came that were confident in their body movement.

An assassin, who had two claws on his wrists, raised his feet while he held the ladder.

Click-.

“Huh?”

“Why?”

As the weight was put, the rope supporting the ladder was pulled.

He felt a sensation come through his fingertips, it was the feeling of having touched a switch.

“Shi-.”

Before he could even curse, an explosion rang out.

Boom-!

Shredded iron bullets poured out with a roar.

The thirteen assassins were crushed by iron bullets that were fired like rain within 10m radius of the rope ladder.

The overwhelming firepower that made humans, like sausages!

“Heup, I’m going to vomit.”

“Huek -!”


Looking at the realistic texture turning gray, it was hard for the users to vomit and run.

“You should listen until the end. What I wanted to say was “It would be dangerous to climb the tree, for you guys”.”

With a smile, Leeha moved to a different branch again.

The Rising Sun members managed to clear their minds and follow Leeha again.

“Never! I won’t just kill you, you bastard!”

“When I get your house address I’ll make it happen!”

As the anger of the combatants consumed their minds, they raised their heads and followed Leeha’s movements.

Their necks moved fast, navigating from tree to tree!

“Kaek-! What is this-”

It felt like they were caught in something and got pulled.

There was no way these guys, with their heads raised and moving, could have found a rope the height of a person’s neck.

And were there ropes installed in the Lightless forest?

“D-dodg–!!”

There was an explosion so loud that it could make one deaf, and beads sparkled from the explosion’s light.

“The God of Pachinko…”

Even Ichiban was slightly moved when he saw the beads being shot in front of him.

It was the rain of beads that only happened when the God of Pachinko .

Clink clank clink clank-!

However, the rain of silver beads, which was shot at a speed that was difficult for eyes to follow, contained enough destructive power to be inserted into the wooden posts.

The pursuit Rising Sun, including Ichiban, was broken.

Unless there was a professional tank that wore heavy armor and a giant shield, it was impossible to survive Leeha’s traps.

Moreover, those tasked for hastened pursuit and encirclement wore either light or leather armor.

The ones who stood until just now could hear the sound of guts pouring out.

“Uwaa, uwaah–!”

“R-run, run!”

“Scroll, release the space lock! I’m going to scroll!”

Bombs and sniping, as well as traps and claymore, had enough firepower to break the will of Rising Sun members.

The level 100 or higher combatants that were supported by the head office were not able to use their skills and suffered a blow that was close to annihilation.

“Haha, you can’t run away. Running away from the battlefield is suicide.”

The Rising Sun users were frightened out of their senses by Leeha and scattered throughout the forest.

And even if Leeha left them alone, the traps he installed would get them.

Running randomly in a place where there was neither light nor direction due to fear?

“The only way back is in front of you… They must not have heard of it before.”

Traps installed throughout the forest were waiting for their prey to approach.

Of course, Leeha didn’t just standstill. He put the musket’s but to his cheek and aimed.

“Bye bye, rising Sun.”

Baaang—!

In the western part Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom, endless explosions resounded in the Lightless Forest.

They, who usually brought tears to the eyes of other users, were crying tears of blood.

‘What happened?’ Each time there was an explosion, tikal trembled.

500 people. A whopping 500 combatants, including the head office’s elites, were deployed.

However, did they have to make a fuss like this?

“Excuse me……. SFM Tikal-nim.”

“Why?”

“What happened inside-”

“How would I know! I can’t get in touch with the assault team leaders!”

It wasn’t that he could not reach them, he was not even able to send a whisper to Jaco.

‘Is he dead? Jaco? Again? Besides, I can’t contact Ichiban as well…’

If it was an area where whispers couldn’t reach, it would be possible.

However, they were in a low-level zone. It’s a place where users under level 20 go to level up.

“What’s going on?”

“I don’t know. Rising Sun must be doing something.”

“Haha, rising Sun bastards are getting cleaned out these days. They must be fighting inside.”

“Ah~ the Mage of Clouds?”

It has been over an hour since Tikal created the self-proclaimed ‘Surefire Search and Destroy Formation’ and sent them into the forest.

It was also relatively close to the capital, so it was natural for users to rush in.

“SFM Tikal-nim, what do we do with these bastards?”

“Leave them. It is not the time to fight those bastards.”

The murmurs of users annoyed the Rising Sun member, however, they had no choice but to endure.

There were some beginners, but there were also high-levels from the capital, and their number over a hundred.

With only 30 of them on the outskirts of the forest, it was not a number that they could deal with.

‘Please… please come out safely, you bastards that only know how to fight!’

As Tikal was praying for his allies in panic, a shadow fluttered at the edge of the Lightless forest.

“Oh! Who’s coming!”

A human figure was seen. There was only one silhouette.

(To be continued…)
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“Is that a person?”

“I don’t know. It’s actually the first time I have seen him… is that the Mage of Clouds?”

“Doesn’t he look ordinary?”

“Oh, then no. That person must be someone who hunts here. The Mage of Clouds must be so cool.”

“You went hunting? There was an explosion in the forest earlier…”

“Hmm… What? Is this a hidden camera prank?”

“What if he suddenly danced to PPAP? Hahaha.”

It was only natural for users to gossip.

In the video, the person toyed with the Rising Sun like they were babies.

Although his identity was unknown, the prevailing opinion was that he was presumably a ranker-level .

But what his outfit and weapon? It looked like someone who did not even reach level 100, let alone a ranker….

When the surrounding users looked down, shook their heads, and laughed at Leeha, there was a group of people who couldn’t laugh.

“You, you….”

“Oh, tikal, you were here too? Haha! You said that you wanted to get revenge, but you were outside because your level wasn’t high enough?”

Leeha laughed, shaking off the soot on his head and shoulders.

They were being mocked, but no one from the Rising Sun, including Tikal, could respond.

Surely? If Leeha came out and they have not heard anything from the FBA…?


“The fact that you came out…”

Gulp, tikal managed to open his mouth.

Just in case. Maybe they captured Leeha alive and let him out first, and Ichiban and Jaco would follow soon.

No, it has to be. It must be. Definitely!

“Can’t you understand the situation after seeing it? That’s right. They’re all dead. No, I killed them all.”

“N-no way! That’s nonsense! O-over 500 of our combatants are dead?”

“Strictly speaking, not everyone. A few must have escaped alive. But 500? No wonder, I used up almost 18 gold over there. I wonder if the few items that I picked up would be worth anything.”

Shiik, there was soot in Leeha’s teeth when he smiled.

There were so many bombs, due to which he thought that the gunpowder dust spread all over the Lightless forest.

In fact, it was safe to say that all of Leeha’s military funds were invested in this situation.

“S-SFM Tikal-nim! Are you just going to leave him alone!?”

“That’s right! Let’s hit him now!”

The remaining Rising Sun users urged Tikal.

They didn’t know what happened in the forest.

However, they were close to 30 people.

The fight was 1 vs 30. It could be said that if they won this fight, it would be a victory for the Rising Sun.

“Haha, you know that this is close to the capital right? Even the ‘infinite slaughter’ that you’re so proud of would be impossible. Well, even if you die once, it won’t do much damage…”

Swiik- Leeha finished reloading his musket in an instant.

37 Seconds! Even without the effect of Delicate Hand Movements, his reload time was already in the 30s range.

“I will win against you perfectly and thoroughly. Do you want to give it a try, the method that I used to ‘slaughter’ 500 people in there?”


Tikal and the Rising Sun members had to admit at least one thing.

Ha Leeha killed 500 people in the lightless forest.

The innocent boy, who used to stare blankly and spoke respectfully, was gone.

They were intimidated by Leeha’s confidence, as he aimed his musket at their head alternately.

A true slaughterer. Mage of Clouds. Setting Sun Desperado.

The devil that forced the Rising Sun into darkness!

Tikal managed to clear his mind by biting his lips tightly.

Anyway, he was finished.

Since this operation failed, he had no place to stand in Rising Sun. And Rising Sun did not tolerate failures.

Rather than getting kicked, tikal will be harassed until he quits Middle Earth.

“D-Do you think that we will let you win? Everyone, prepare for battle!”

They had to catch Leeha at least for him to not get harassed. Even at the cost of the lives of 530 people, they must catch Ha Leeha once!

– Stop it!

“Huh?”

“What?”

– It’s nice to meet you!

“W-Who are you?! Come out!”

A voice stopped them from preparing for battle. However, it was difficult to know exactly where the sound came from.

There were already more than a hundred users surrounding Ha Leeha and Rising Sun.

“Do you think we would stop just because you told us to?”


“Right, rising Sun is too much. Why are they bothering one person like that?”

Two people came out from the players gathered..

A tall knight and a white-skinned beauty.

The two people, who waved their hands towards Leeha, received attention from the people and Rising Sun.

“Hello, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Yahoo! Do you remember us? We had a party together at Sheymoore mountain in the past!”

“Oh! Matsushige-nim? Mame Hana-nim? How are you… No, are you here to help?”

It was nothing new.

It was the same for the people surrounding them. Leeha had a video where he hunted Rising Sun, which was a hot topic on the internet.

Anyone who knew Leeha could guess the identity of the ‘Mage of Clouds’.

“We would like to. We’ll talk later. First of all, let’s take care of Rising Sun”

“Right! Until now, there were a lot of you, so I endured, but not anymore!”

At first, there were only two people, a knight, and a sister, who stood beside Leeha.

However, as the two took Leeha’s side and criticized Rising Sun, one, two, three, the number of people began to increase…

“Come to think of it, my hyung lost his items to those bastards. Fuck, get them! I still remember my hyung crying.”

“I got hit a few times too! Someone in my party killed a Rising Sun member, and they killed me too…. Don’t you remember?”

“Evil bastards! This time we have more people!”

“Would you like to try it!? I just got to level 80. I won’t suffer like I used to!”

These people were the ones who endured the oppression of Rising Sun.

Leeha’s struggles ignited their anger.

“SFM Tikal-nim?”

“That’s…”

Rising Sun members were perplexed. How could users behave in such an organized way?

They were people that always stood aside and watched like sheep.

They had convinced themselves that they were lucky that they did not become the victim of Rising Sun, and that it was somebody else’s business.

But now, things have changed. No, to be precise, it was changed.

One person’s power had changed their minds.

“That’s right…… What are you going to do? Go? Stop? You know that you need to concede when you’re in trouble, right?”

The one that changed their minds smiled with his musket up.

—

“T-Then are you saying you already know?”

“That’s right. I thought Kyokujitsu would come, so I prepared in advance.”

“Oh… Indeed. I’ve heard rumors that you’re the best among the Intelligence Guilds created by users, but this……”

Inside the room with a floor made of bamboo.

Kyokujitsu was taken by surprise at the place which was decorated with an exotic atmosphere that made him wonder if such a house exists in Middle Earth.

“This is ridiculous, president-nim! No matter how much they buy and sell information, they must be trying to raise their price by keeping quiet. How much would the information-”

“If you don’t believe it, take a look at this.”

As the Headmaster of Planning tried to stop Kyokujitsu, a piece of paper was tossed and flew over his feet.

“Hmm? This-!”

“The… The location of our branch offices…”

Kyokujitsu and the director of planning shook their heads.

It was obvious what they were going to ask, so the answer came from behind them.

“It was not us who passed the information to the Mage of Clouds. Ha Leeha that guy…It seems he is connected to another intelligence guild.”

“Can’t you figure out who?”

“We had difficulty figuring it out. It not to be among the users, but there are opinions that it’s an intelligence guild created by NPCs.”

“Oh…”

The director of planning still had red eyes.

However, Kyokujitsu gently acknowledged the remark.

It was difficult to maximize profits in this business by playing tricks. They could have done it by playing ‘tug-of-war’ from the beginning before handing the information.

“Then how can we catch Ha Leeha?”

“The preparations are already in progress.”

“Is it already going on? Shouldn’t our guild members catch him now?”

“I know. You made a detached force consisting of 500 people, right? No, they will fail.”

At his answer, Kyokujitsu and the director of planning were surprised.

It’s only been an hour since they received the report, and they have already figured out the scale.

“T-They will fail? How do you-”

“Ha Leeha had been preparing for this fight from the beginning. Our shinobis were spying on him. Even if you believe that it won’t fail, you should probably get insurance. If Rising Sun fails, we could kill Ha Leeha”

“Hmm.”

Kyokujitsu quickly turned his head.

He didn’t think they will fail, but, he could not ignore the man’s words.

“How much would the insurance…”

“One.”

“If it’s only one…”

“One thousand gold.”

“One thousand gold?”

1,000 gold. It was about 120 million won. Even in real-life, a hitman won’t get that much money!

“T-This bastard! President! We should no longer negotiate with these bastards-”

“Hey, director of planning, be quiet!!”

Bang-!

As a giant, when Kyokujitsu slammed the floor, the entire room vibrated.

The director of planning, bongjin, lowered his head and shut his mouth.

1,000 gold. It was a huge amount of money, however, rising Sun was a ‘corporate-type guild’, and it was at an acceptable level.

Of course, it was still a lot of money, but the amount of money they lost because of Ha Leeha, exceeded 1000 gold.

Kyokujitsu had no other choice.

“Okay.”…

“One thousand.”

“You thought well. If Rising Sun fails, we will step forward.”

Clap, clap. A black-haired person jumped out of nowhere when the person beyond the bamboo hut clapped.

The director of planning was startled, but all he had in his hand was a piece of paper.

“Please sign this.”

Kyokujitsu and the director of planning quickly reviewed and signed the contract.

1,000 gold insurance. Rising Sun literally opened its treasury to kill Ha Leeha.

“Then since the contract was signed… we will go right away.”

“Hmm? Right away? Did we fail?”

“That’s right. Right away. Because Rising Sun has already failed.”

“W-What…?”

Even Kyokujitsu was bewildered.

Failed? How long has it been since they started? How did they fail?

The director of planning quickly noticed Tikal and started whispering to the combat agents at the head office.

“Let’s begin.”

The personnel beyond the bamboo hut opened their mouths.

“We…We will come back.”

—

“SFM Tikal!”

“We lost.”

Tikal bowed his head. If he had tears, they were probably dripping.

530 people were mobilized.

The high-level users from the head office, who tore down and killed those who opposed Rising Sun, also got killed.

Who was responsible for that? Tikal did not want to level down by fighting Leeha for nothing.

If he planned to continue playing Middle Earth, he must be prepared to get chased by Rising Sun for the rest of his life.

Quitting the game was probably the most comfortable thing to do.

“H-Ha Leeha you-”

“Let’s see, don’t speak. The moment you talk, your head disappear. I’m not nice enough to let those who oppose me live.”

Leeha suddenly raised his musket again, and one of the Rising Sun members became silent.

He was about to try and show his last price and useless courage, however, Leeha did not tolerate even that.

“Everyone, let’s head back.”

Shoo- Shoo-!

At Tikal’s words, everyone started disappearing as they used teleport or return scroll.

Tikal, who remained until the end, looked at Leeha and logged out directly.

(To be continued…)
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Returning to Rising Sun was a path to suicide.

Leeha had a vague understanding of Tikal’s fate.

He would never see Tikal in the future again. Even if Leeha forgave him, rising Sun would not.

“They retreated…”

“They retreated! Those Rising Sun bastards retreated!”

“We won!! Wow!!!!”

“Uwaaak!! We won!”

“Wow, I have been filming since a while ago, I did great. There’s no way those Rising Sun bastards would admit their loss!”

As soon as they left, the users around them cheered.

It meant that their dissent against Rising Sun was successful! In other words, it was no different from small citizens looking at revolution.

“Let’s start with the tossing! Mage of Clouds, magician of Clouds!”

A large user grabbed Leeha’s arm and leg.

Other users immediately responded to his quick movements.

“Oh? Oh, w-wait-”

“The Setting Sun Desperado who forcibly ended the Rising Sun!”

“I love you!! We love you!”

“You’re so handsome!”


Hooray–!

“Uwaak, don’t do it! Take me down! It hurts!”

Hooray—!

“G-Gun! The musket’s butt is hitting my back! Aak!”

Boong, boong, Leeha’s body flew through the air.

It was embarrassing, but it can’t be helped that they were happy. Leeha knew how great his accomplishment was.

He couldn’t express how proud he felt as the knowledge he had gained from his time in the military was not useless.

Simplypossessing bombs and traps would not have been enough.

How to use the weapons and knowledge one had depending on the place and situation, was much more important.

“Please let me get off now!”

After getting tossed a few times, Leeha barely put his feet on the ground.

He had no time to enjoy being the hero of low-levels.

“Amazing!! Cloud Mage!! Sir!! Please be friends with me!!”

“How did you do it? What’s your weapon? How did you attack from such a distance?”

“Sir, are you friends with the Englishmen? Or it wouldn’t make sense.”

“Ha Leeha, right?? Ha Leeha? Please be friends with me!”

“W-Wait a minute! Kuwak!” What would happen when one saw the hero who drew a lot of attention on the internet right in front of their eyes?

Of course, they would rush in. And they rushed in, ready to crush Leeha.

The add friend notification popped up along with the people who rushed in to talk to him.

What was worse was even whispers came in…


“Ha Leeha-nim! Come here!”

“Come quickly!”

“Matsushige-nim! Mame Hana-nim!” It was natural that Matsushige, who appeared, looked like a savior.

“Reach out your hand!”

At Matsushige’s words, Leeha reflexively stretched out his arms.

Matsushige, who had long arms, grabbed Leeha’s arms and forcibly pulled-!

Leeha, who was almost ‘siege and annihilated’ by users, managed to get out.

“First, we have to move location. Can you join our party? I will use a mass teleport scroll.”

“Mass- ? Anyway, let’s get out of here for a bit!”

Matsushige, mame Hana, and Leeha made a party.

Behind them, users rushed in like zombies, and a chill up Leeha’s spine.

‘N-not everyone can be a celebrity!’

Perhaps it was natural that Leeha was more popular than celebrities to Middle Earth’s low-level users.

“Quick, ma-chan! T-The people behind will catch us!”

Mame Hana tried to shout, but the users’ shouts were much louder.

“Mage of Clouds! Have a party with me!”

“Please do something!”

“What level are you? Who are those people?!”

“Let’s go!”

Riip—!


And finally, matsushige tore the scroll.

As the three people disappeared instantly, the steps of the users left behind naturally stopped.

“Aish… Who are those bitches.”

“Are they fans? They were even in a party.”

“It doesn’t seem like they’re in the same guild, but those bastards have monopolized the Mage of Clouds.”

Of course, they didn’t forget to curse at the two people who took Leeha.

“So, how do we deal with Rising Sun now”

“Did the Mage of Clouds deal with all of them?”

“Wow, amazing. I don’t have to run away when I hunt now, right?”

However, their anger was short-lived, and even when Leeha disappeared, the users did not disperse and talked about their opinions. They hoped for the low-level area to be brighter.

—

“Haa… I was really scared, ma-chan! Those people just-! Whoa…

“It’s okay, hana-chan.”

Mame Hana collapsed, barely calming her pounding heart.

Leeha looked around the area where he had arrived with Mame Hana and Matsushige.

It was a pretty cozy house with a bed and chair.

‘House…? Are the two of them married? Since they arrived, the atmosphere seemed unusual.’

It was the same when they called each other by nickname, or when they talked about chivalry. Leeha’s first thought was that maybe they were lovers or married.

“Are you okay, Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Ah, yes. Thank you. Thanks to you, I’m alive. I wouldn’t have been able to react properly if you hadn’t appeared…”

“Haha, right. Ha Leeha is a hero. They didn’t know your ID, but is there any user in Middle Earth that does not know 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 and 『 the Mage of Clouds 』?”

“Ah, what… That’s not true.”

That’s right. That was what Leeha wanted to say, however, Leeha barely pretended to be humble.

Right! It was the common consensus of rankers that they could not touch Rising Sun!

‘Everyone must have had the same reason. The reason why rankers did not touch Rising Sun was that there were too many of those cockroaches. Even if they catch one, more will come again.’

So Leeha needed to come up with a different idea.

What would you do if cockroaches pop out whenever you catch one? Then you should lure them all at once and burn them all.

However, there were conditions. The bait had to be a ‘weak person’, and at the same time, they should be able to fight as well.

‘In other words, it was because I’m low level.’

Leeha managed to control his mouth that was about to open.

“Matsushige-nim, have you done a lot of leveling since then? Where is this? Is this the house for the two of you~?”

Leeha joked, but Matsushige did not answer.

He just stared into the air with blank eyes for a moment. It felt like his eyes had lost focus.

“Matsushige-nim?”

“Haha, n-no! What do you and Ma-chan’s house! It’s more like a hangout!”

He was talking to Matsushige but the one who answered was Mame Hana.

“Isn’t that right, ma-chan”

“Ah? Ah, yes. Yes. I’m out of the Kobold Village now. Haha.”

“What? ”

The reply was a beat slow. Was it the answer to the question of whether he had been leveling a lot?

As Mame Hana glanced at Matsushige, matsushige immediately waved his hands in a hurry.

“Ah! House?! Of course, I am constantly courting Hana-chan, but I’m still- kuek!”

“Y-you’re noisy, ma-chan!”

Mame Hana poked Matsushige’s side with her elbow.

The two’s behavior made Leeha smile.

“By the way, what happened Ha Leeha-nim? You were amazing in Mount Sheymoore, but your video was no joke. You shot from an unseen position.”

“Ah, yes. It was so amazing that Ma-chan and I were very surprised! There was only one person fighting Rising Sun, and it was someone we know!”

“Haha, well, I wasn’t invisible. I was just hiding.”

“Still! Still! That’s still unbelievable! Right? It was over 100m!”

Mame Hana approached Leeha with a curious expression and stared at the Needle Gun.

She had round eyes with pure white skin. She certainly did look like a doll.

Leeha just smiled as he saw Mame Hana approach naturally.

‘Now, once the chaos ends, I should go to the capital after leaving Matsushige’s house. Uh, the problem is my face was seen. I should wear a mask until it’s quiet-.’

Puk-.

He was looking at Mame Hana and thinking about the future.

In front of him, mame Hana tore a scroll.

“What? What are you doing?”

“Haha, it’s nothing.”

“What…… nothing-.”

“Weapon break!”

“Oh? Ah-!”

It happened in an instant.

As soon as he turned his head toward Mame Hana, matsushige activated his skill.

His sword pierced Leeha’s arm like a snake.

Was his target Leeha’s neck? Chest? It was not it. The place Matsushige’s sword targeted Leeha’s musket, needle Gun.

After breaking the strap, Leeha’s musket, whose barrel got cut in half, was transferred to Matsushige’s hand the next moment.

“Phew, it didn’t break in one shot. Maybe because my skill level is still low.”

“It’s great that you stole it, ma-chan.”

“W… What? What are you doing, matsushige-nim? Mame Hana-nim? It’s a very bad joke, right?”

His weapon was stolen. What was this absurdity…?

So far, Leeha had been cautious.

However, he had already felt that Mame Hana and Matsushige’s atmosphere changed. Leeha’s hands move to his bag.

“Ahh, we don’t know if we should feel bad or not. Anyway, if you don’t have a weapon aren’t you just a target? Ah, there’s no use scrolling out, because the space has been locked.”

Matsushige ran and stood in front of the door.

His frowning expression with one eye folded, was 180 degrees different from before.

“…What are you, rising Sun?”

“Oh, oh! Be careful. You can’t compare us to those ignorant bastards”

“Then what?”

It wasn’t Rising Sun, they don’t even use such tricks.

It was their code to show the Rising Sun symbol when playing and Matsushige and Mame Hana didn’t look like that from the beginning, let alone in the Kobold Village, or when they faced Tikal, they did not look like members of Rising Sun.

“Huh, he’s asking us who we are, hana-chan?”

“Huh, you don’t need to know, do you? You’re someone who’s about to die anyway. Ah really! Ma-chan, what did Oka-san say earlier? We shouldn’t start yet.”

“When I said we got him, she told me to wait. The head is coming.”

“Hehe, I think they changed the conditions?”

“Is that so? Well, they’ve been treated so harshly, so I guess they want to get revenge with their own hands. Alright. Oka-san said that they increased the reward by 20%.”

“Really? Really?”

“So, Ha Leeha, you…”

Passing by Mame Hana, matsushige pointed his sword toward Leeha.

“You just need to be quiet.”

smiling face, which he had seen at Mount Sheymoore, bubbly with a slight smile at the same time, was very familiar to Leeha.

The spies were commissioned by Kyokujitsu. The guild member who carefully observed Leeha in Mount Sheymoore and Kobold Village revealed their teeth.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 136

				
Translated by: xLordFifth

Edited by: Aadhitya

Edited by: Spitfirus

However, Leeha, who did not know the whole story, was unable to say anything to sort out the situation.

Betrayal?! No, he wasn’t even close enough with them to use the word betrayal.

Nevertheless, they were in the same party together.

‘I understand that it’s some other guild that Rising Sun commissioned. But this, could there be such a coincidence?’

Leeha couldn’t easily accept that it was a coincidence, that the person he knew and party-played with while leveling up, belonged to the guild commissioned by Rising Sun among numerous guilds.

“How did it happen? Rising Sun couldn’t have known that we were acquainted with each other-”

“Haha, rising Sun? There’s no way the idiot Kyokujitsu would have known that. Should I say that Oka-san has been monitoring you ever since?”

“Yes, yes, yes. If you look at it, we did not kill Leeha in Mount Sheymoore, right?”

“Ah, yes. Right. At most, I tried to prevent him from catching the Kobold boss. Heung, come to think of it, the idiots from Rising Sun appeared at that time, so we had to leave…. Should I thank Rising Sun?”

“Kuhaha, this is fun! This is fun, ma-chan! However, it’s a pity that I wasn’t able to see your face when we stabbed you in the back, without being able to use teleport scroll.”

That was what a sister said.

Mame Hana, dressed as a nun, wore a smile on her face while she said that she had stabbed someone in the back. It didn’t suit her innocent face at all.

“T-That’s right. That’s the advantage of our job.” ‘Kuheok-! Why…? Why me?!’ “Haha, then after we are done here, and get our share, I will go on a hot spring trip for a week. Isn’t that right, hana-chan?”

“Yes, yes!”

Every time Mame Hana and Matsushige talked excitedly, Leeha felt goosebumps.

It wasn’t because Kyokujitsu was coming soon, or that the two of them betrayed him, or because they said psychotic things.

‘Oka-san……? Was there someone paying attention to me from the beginning?’


‘Does it mean that these two discovered me in Mount Sheymoore, because of the person they call Oka-san? Who is Oka-san? they know?’

‘No. I can find out after escaping from here. If what they said is true, Kyokujitsu will be here soon.’

He would not be alone.

The rest of the Rising Sun experts would be brought along.

If he didn’t have any experts, mame Hana and Matsushige’s guild should have some.

Anyway, Leeha needed to deal with them by himself.

In other words, what Leeha needed to do right now wasn’t to think about the identity of the mysterious Oka-san.

‘I have to escape. I can investigate later.’

Leeha glanced at Matsushige and Mame Hana. Carelessness comes when everything goes smoothly.

As the two giggled, Leeha secretly moved his hands to his bag.

“What would be quicker, you taking out a bomb, or my sword cutting your neck? We don’t mind killing you right now. We can still complete the mission if we show your body. We won’t get the extra 20% share though.”

Matsushige’s sword was faster than Leeha’s hand.

It meant that he was acting like a fool in the Kobold Village. Leeha bit his lips.

“How much. How much are you going to get paid?”

“A poor bastard like you can’t earn that much money in Middle Earth for the rest of your life.”

“Well, you wouldn’t know by just looking at me. I also earn quite a bit of money. If I can deal with the right boss monsters, I can get around 100 gold quickly-”

“Puhahaha-! 100gold? 100gold?”

“Kuhaha, ma-chan! Ha Leeha is playing with us?!”

“What?”

100 gold is worth 12 million Korean won.


They could dismiss that kind of money? Matsushige, who had been laughing for a while, opened his mouth.. He could only come to the Leeha was looking down on Middle Earth.

“The money we will receive is 480 gold. I won’t tell you how much Oka-san will receive from Risin Sun, but… let alone 100 gold, don’t you know that even 200 gold is nothing to us?”

“F-Four hundred eighty?”

The pirates in the manhwa would feel proud to have a bounty of such amounts on their neck, but it was not an amount that Leeha had.

At the very least, Leeha would not be able to bribe these two with money. And he had no time to think of anything else.

Creak-.

The door opened and a huge shadow fell into the house.

“You are here!”

Matsushige raised his voice to greet. In order to grasp the identity of the silhouette, Leeha opened his eyes.

‘He’s big! Is Oka-san that giant…‘?’

The first to come in was a giant. A man with a strong impression and a thick beard on his lower face. What followed was a human with a sharp impression.

“Ah, you-”

“I am shinobi Matsushige. I have received instructions from Oka-san.”

However, seeing Matsushige say his greeting, Leeha knew that his guess was wrong. Additionally, matsushige’s greetings the human standing in a position to assist the giant, Leeha immediately recognized the giant’s identity.

“Kyokujitsu…”

“Oh, hahaha, Ha Leeha… Are you Ha Leeha, the Setting Sun Desperado?”

Guild master Kyokujitsu of Rising Sun.

The symbol of the Rising Sun could not be seen on him anywhere. It was a way for the guild master to avoid getting attacked.

Leeha and Kyokujitsu measured each other during the brief moment their eyes met.

“Indeed. If such a stocky guy hid and attacked, he wouldn’t have been found so easily.”


“That’s right, president. However, that’s all there is to it.”

The director of planning sharpened his teeth and looked down on Leeha. Considering the accumulated losses in the past, he was not able to calm down!

“Isn’t it too much to solve your problem inside the game using outside forces?”

“What is? What happened in the game was solved in the game. Whom did I bring from the outside? Did I do something like that director of planning?”

“Of course not, president. It was solved by requesting the guild in the game.”

“. Hahaha!”

Kyokujitsu laughed heartily.

The house, which was not very spacious, was full with the entrance of Kyokujitsu, the director of planning, and two Rising Sun members.

As Leeha, matsushige, and Mame Hana were there as well, it became cramped.

‘Here’s the bomb. If I throw this and use force barrier, I will have a chance.’

But that was all.

The space was locked. Leeha didn’t even know who was waiting outside, moreover, his musket had been stolen with its barrel cut in half!

‘Damn, will I be forced to die? I’m not scared of death but…’

The thing is, Leeha didn’t know where this was. It would be good if he died and resurrected in the capital.

Then it would end in just one death. He could pay them back later. However, Leeha did not think that was possible.

They must be near a village with few guards.

If he gets resurrected in such a village, he would experience Rising Sun’s infinity killing.

And Leeha’s assumption was correct. Rising Sun poured out 1,200 gold and Oka-san responded perfectly to their request.

“Haha, there’s no need to think too much. I have found a way for you to live, Ha Leeha.”

“What?”

“You will join the Rising Sun.”

“What?”

“P-President?!”

Leeha was not the only one perplexed by Kyokujitsu’s words. The director of planning sitting next to him looked at Kyokujitsu in surprise.

Leeha noticed that it was not something that had been previously discussed.

“What would we get if we squeeze him to death? A winning record? We have enough of that now. Director of planning, can’t you guess what we need to do to get rid of him?”

“T-that…”

Yes. Killing him endlessly. It was possible to do, and it would save Rising Sun’s face, but there was no benefit.

Kyokujitsu also wanted that but he suppressed his anger.

Moreover, it must have been him who wanted to tear Leeha apart the most.

“Additionally, this- no, sorry.”

Matsushige stared at Kyokujitsu for a moment.

Kyokujitsu shrugged his shoulders and continued.

“In order to recover the money we paid to Oka-san…. Ha Leeha would need to pay us each month. n’t he?”

There were many ways to force him. Just like the 『 Contract 』 Kyokujitsu and Oka-san signed, he could use it to coerce actions in Middle Earth.

In the event of non-payment, sanctions may be imposed by the contract.

Simply killing was something that inferior gangsters do. In that respect, Kyokujitsu’s method was similar to that of a financial company.

“Yes. You are indeed the president.”

“Oh, there’s that way.”

“It will definitely be good news if the Mage of Clouds comes to us!”

The Rising Sun personnel, including the director of planning, drank the kimchi soup.

“Don’t fuck with me. Crazy bastards.”

However, they did not think about the person who would give them the rice cake.

“Hey, you bastard, the president-!”

“President, let’s kill him first, then we could talk about it later?!”

The combatants growled and stared at Leeha but they could not act without Kyokujitsu’s orders.

Rumors have already spread that 500 people, including the Rising Sun’s head office combatants, have already been killed.

There was no way they wouldn’t want to get revenge for their allies.

“Think about it, Ha Leeha. If you don’t accept this, you will die indefinitely. Until you quit Middle Earth. Until you delete your character. Would it be worth it?”

“However, that’s not it. Why would you waste your talent? You shouldn’t hate money either. I’ll treat you like an SFM. I’ll even set up a stand-alone branch. You can take all your subordinate’s portions. This kind of preferential treatment is not given to normal branch managers. You have to be at the level of director of planning to get it.”

The director of planning widened his eyes and looked at Kyokujitsu. From the perspective of Rising Sun insiders, preferential treatment was not common.

Except for the portion to be paid to the organization, the rest were monopolized. At the same time, it was said the protection of the Rising Sun organization can be received…

If Leeha did not win against 500 people, it would have been a privilege for existing members.

“Hahaha… You’re saying that you will take care of people with abilities. Are you really going to give me such a special preference?”

“Sure! It’s the age of result-oriented pay. It is natural to take care of those who perform well. If you are capable, you can get more than 100 gold by yourself within a month in Middle Earth time, especially if you properly pick your target. That’s four days in reality. Within a week, in reality, you can get at least 200 gold. How about in a month? Maybe even 1000 gold.”

Kyokujitsu’s voice gradually lowered.

It was meant for Leeha, but before he knew it, even Matsushige and Mame Hana were listening to his voice.

In terms of handling people, he was the best.

“What we are doing is not honorable. But not illegal right? In Middle Earth, we risk our lives to do business, getting our own penalties. No, if you’re really struggling, how about working for our organization for a year? In a year, won’t you have more than 10,000 gold? Without any risk.”

According to the reports brought by Rising Sun they find, kill, and extort users who luckily obtained high-value items. Beginners who were below level 100 could not even dare to fight Rising Sun.

In other words, it meant that one could safely take items without risking retaliation or revenge just by putting the Rising Sun behind you.

As Kyokujitsu said, Leeha could earn money for his leg surgery in just two years.

The sweeter the words came into Leeha’s ears, the firmer the idea he had in his head became.

“I have become a threat to you. Enough to say things like that.”

“What?”

“Aren’t you saying that Rising Sun is on the verge of collapse? Fuck you.”

Leeha smiled and raised his middle finger.

Kyokujitsu’s face, which had a business-like smile until now to attract Leeha, distorted in an instant.

“You bastard, you dare… You should have listened while I was speaking nicely!”

Boom-!

When Kyokujitsu, who was filled with anger, slammed the wall hard, everyone’s eyes turned to him.

‘Now!’

At that moment, Leeha’s hand dug into the bag.

Chiii…

Negotiation? From the beginning, Leeha had no intention of doing that.

He just pretended to listen until now!

“You can’t lower your guard in such a narrow place!”

Chiii , Leeha laughed and threw the bombs.

(To be continued…)

Note:

Don’t drink the kimchi soup before being offered rice cake. It’s a Korean proverb that’s equivalent to “Don’t count the chickens before they hatch.”

Meaning, don’t get ahead of yourself.

Hence, the sentence The Rising Sun personnel, including the director of planning, drank the kimchi soup. However, they did not think about the person who would give them the rice cake.

Meaning the Rising Sun personnel was very sure that Leeha would agree with Kyokujitsu.
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“Uwaaak–!!”

“S-Stop! Bomb-”

“Weapon B- Damn it, hana-chan!”

“Force barrier-!”

Matsushige, who was about to cut off the wick of the bomb, hurriedly withdrew his sword.

He was not able to do it. As soon as the force barrier was hit, Leeha took another bomb from his bag.

It was calculated in such a way that even if the first bomb was stopped, they would not be able to stop the second bomb.

Boom-—!

“Protection!”

“Kuwaak-!!”

The sound of someone casting and someone shouting got buried in the explosion.

Leeha did not stand still.

Chii—, chii……

Black powder already produced a lot of smoke. What would happen if it exploded in a house with poor ventilation?

‘It was godsent to be in a small house. I could blow up the whole house!’

A narrow space, a smokescreen that made it hard to distinguish between allies and foes, and a new escape route!

“W-where is he! Find Ha Leeha!”

“President, be careful! There’s another bomb-.”


Boom, boom—!

One wall was blown away by a series of explosions.

The white smoke, which finally found a place to go, moved in lumps, and Leeha, who was inside the Force Barrier, lowered his posture and looked at the situation.

Mame Hana hid behind Matsushige’s shield. What about Kyokujitsu? Someone’s body trembled in front of him.

‘That crazy bastard, did he use his own subordinate as his shield?’

There was no time to curse. Leeha quickly ran to the broken wall before they could fix their ranks.

It was fortunate that he found his belongings that had fallen to the floor.

‘Needle Gun!’

More than half of the musket’s butt was smashed, and 2/3rd of the barrel was cut off.

Although Leeha could no longer call it a musket, and could only be seen as a piece that was once a musket, Leeha still carefully picked up the Needle gun.

It was fortunate that major parts such as the gunpowder plates and trigger remained.

‘Matsushige, you bastard. I will pay you back for the Needle Gun…’

Leeha wanted to pay him back right away, but it was not the time.

Leeha lowered his posture and ran towards the open wall.

“He ran away!! Ha Leeha is out!”

“Keuk, catch him! You idiot spies! You’re not worth the money!”

“Damn it, why is it suddenly our fault? Didn’t we deliver him to you? You’re the one who let him escape!”

Rising Sun and Matsushige cursed at each other, but not for long.

Anyway, it didn’t matter whose responsibility it was. That was a matter that could be discussed later.

“Catch Ha Leeha!!!”


Everyone agreed that they had to catch the escaping Ha Leeha.

‘Faster, faster! I don’t have many bombs!’

He used three out of the five that were barely left, and now he only had two left.

However, he had to face as many as five people, including Mame Hana, matsushige, the director of planning, and one combatant.

The fact that two bombs were used in a small house and only caused one casualty was a testament to how fast the reaction of the people in the house were.

“Do you think you can run away, Ha Leeha!”

“We’ll block the space, rising Sun, chase him!”

Mame Hana stopped and tore a scroll again. The support naturally fell behind, and Matsushige ran in front of her.

As expected, in front of Kyokujitsu, a combatant from Rising Sun ran, and the director of planning was next to him.

Leeha, who was about to turn around and throw a bomb had no choice but to clench his teeth.

‘There’s no gap. Damn it!! I should have called Kijung-.’

It was already too late. And he had no room to do that. He had to focus on his pursuers and find a gap in their carelessness.

“Catch him, director of planning!”

“Okay. Slow!”

『 Slow status has been applied 』

『 All movement speed has been reduced by 50% for 1 hour. 』

“This-.”

His whole body felt sticky. It was to the point where Leeha could not easily remove his feet from the ground.

“Shall we deal with him, president?”

“Once the slow is released… wouldn’t it be better to cut off one of his legs while we talk so that he could not run away? I don’t have any intention of just letting you go, Ha Leeha. I will force you to sign the contract.”


Kyokujitsu snapped his finger-! And the combatant raised his sword and ran towards Leeha.

He moved his hand to take out a bomb however, it felt like his bag was 42km away. He couldn’t seem to reach it.

“Kuhahaha! Pray that your assimilation rate is low!”

Rising Sun ran while dragging their feet over.

Leeha looked around with all he got.

‘Are there any other users? Is there no one else here but the five of them?’

“This is revenge for my comrades, magician of Clouds!!!”

Leeha opened his mouth as he looked at the combatant running towards him with a distorted face.

‘There’s none. There’s no one around! No one is watching the situation!’

“Thank god. There’s no one.”

“What?”

After confirming that no one was around, the corner of Leeha’s mouth twisted and rose.

He wasn’t trying to get out of the situation with just five bombs.

“Soul Link.”

Leeha quietly murmured a skill name. Red light erupted from his body.

Haaak…….

『 Beginner’s Soul Link 』

Description: You can summon the soul of your soul mate. The soul of the summoned soulmate could regain its body just before its death and can be strengthened according to the user’s level. (Skill cannot be leveled up)

Effect: Summon a soul mate for 30 minutes, increase soulmate’s level by 1/2 of user’s level

Mana: 200

Cooldown: 24hours

“W-what is that light?!”

Everyone rushed to raise their arms to cover the light.

What? What skill was it? They couldn’t hear the skill name when Leeha cast it.

“The light is out!”

“First, stop him from running away! If we miss that bastard- ……What…… What is that?”

As the red light faded, Kyokujitsu lowered his arms and shouted, however, his words were cut short.

Because in front of Ha Leeha, who had been wriggling like a snail, a giant creature caught his eyes.

“Bear?”

Huh?

The bear tilted his head and looked into Kyokujitsu’s eyes.

It was not an ordinary bear. It was larger than the giant race.

It was a bear that was larger than an elephant….

“Field boss…”

“Fire Bear? Why is the Fire Bear here all of a sudden-”

They were flustered and confused, however, Leeha knew that it would not last long.

He needed to be fast!

“Kill them all, Kuma-ya!!!”

Kuooong —— ill!!

The Fire Bear let out a gigantic cry as if to follow Leeha’s shout.

『 Agonia Oso roared. 』

『 ‘Fear’ status effect has been applied. 』

『 You can’t move for 3 minutes. 』

『 Maximum HP has been reduced by 15%. 』

『 Stamina has been reduced by 35% or less. 』

“Koheok! I-it’s really the Fire Bear! Field boss-!”

“Fire Bear? No, what is a Fire Bear? Suddenly?”

“Kuok, my body isn’t moving!”

“This is crazy, the Agonia Oso is a level 60 mob! Hana-chan, release me!”

Matsushige tried to turn around, but he could not move his head.

It was a perfect ‘fear’ effect. However, if it’s the sister, he should be able to remove the status ailment!

Mame Hana was a few levels higher than the Fire Bear, so it was expected that she wasn’t caught by fear!

“Me too! I was feared too, ma-chan! The effect is longer than normal fear-! Even the effect of a Fire Bear couldn’t be this long!”

That hope quickly shattered.

Mame Hana could only moan, like a butterfly caught in a spider’s web, could not move.

Leeha laughed.

“Hahaha… Of course. Of course. Did Kuma look like a mob at only level 60? That’s too bad. Huh?”

Kuoong, kuoong-!

“Ugh, okay, let’s share our joy later.”

Its tongue was larger than Leeha’s face. Kuma’s tongue swept over Leeha’s cheek and his face became drenched in saliva.

The ‘little boy’ who grew too big had become a boss monster that had exceeded expectations.

‘I was hoping for a bear with a moderately high level, but it must have turned into a Fire Bear.’

It was a gamble. It was a skill he had never used and had completely forgotten.

Soul Link came to mind while Leeha checked his skills a while ago.

It was a skill attached to the achievement Soul Mate, and Leeha was the first to acquire it.

In other words, Leeha was the only one who had the Soul Link skill in Middle Earth.

In fact, in order for them to not catch on to it, Leeha cast it quietly.

“N-no way! He summoned a monster! Unless he’s a summoner- no, even if he’s a summoner or a tamer, a boss monster…”

“Haha, what nonsense are you talking about when you already know that I’m a musketeer?”

Leeha laughed. Kuma produced a roaring effect that even made the sister, mame Hana, flustered.

The guy next to Leeha was not a level 60 boss monster.

Leeha remembered the system notification that previously appeared in his eyes.

『 Soul Link skill had been activated. 』

『 A soul mate has been summoned for 30 minutes 』

『 The current level of soul mate is level 66. 』

『 1/2 of the user’s level is added. 』

『 The current level of the soul mate is level 112.』

‘My current level is 92. Kuma’s level is a whopping 112! The result of killing 500 people shined like this again.’

Leeha was in his mid-80s when he began killing 500 people, and after he killed all of them, his level shot up the 90s.

“Even that rise in level had been added to Kuma…”

A level 112 Fire Bear could fight one-on-one with the Brass Golem in the Rocky Mountains and win.

It was a perfect turn around but Leeha stayed vigilant.

First of all, he had to catch a fly.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Our guild only received a request! About Rising Sun-.”

“Shut up, you scum. You guys are the biggest problem. Kuma! Kill those two first.”

Kuoong!

“A-aahh-! Do not come! Do not come-”

“Kyaaak—! Ma-chan! Ma-chan!!!! Ha Leeha, you bastard!!!”

Kwaduk, kwaduk, the Fire Bear lightly crushed Matsushige’s armor and chewed on his body.

The assimilation rate must not have been low, considering the screaming, so Leeha was happy to be able to provide the experience of getting chewed by a bear.

Whether he was her lover or husband, mame Hana couldn’t help but tremble as she watched Matsushige get eaten by Kuma. Because she still couldn’t escape the fear effect.

“Hmm, sister…… right, Kuma! Burn that bitch to death.”

Kuong.

Suddenly, the bear’s body caught fire.

It was a pattern change when his HP decreased a certain amount, but he could freely use it when summoned?

Anyway, Kuma who turned into a true ‘Fire Bear’ spat at Mame Hana.

“S-save-.”

Flames that one could not survive through appeared. Rising Sun were terrified and were unable to look at the scene.

“No, what should we do? I think you said something earlier Ah! First, did you say that you will cut off my legs so that I can’t escape?”

“T-that, it’s not……”

“Are you afraid of what happened? What you and your Rising Sun did. You were lucky enough to approach beginners who were lucky enough to get good items. Right?”

Leeha smiled.

In Kyokujitsu, the director of planning, and the combatant’s eyes, it looked like a devil’s smile.

“Kuma. Let’s start by killing the one useless bastard. I have a lot to ask the other two about.”

Kuong-!

Kuma walked over and slapped the combatant’s head and his body went stiff.

The sound of a ripe watermelon getting split spread out.

(To be continued…)

Note: Leeha calls the fire bear 꼬마(Kuma/Koma). Literal translation is Kidd/Little Boy.

I interchange Kuma and Little Boy depending on the context. Also, I decided to use Kuma whenever Leeha calls the bear because I think it’s better than Kidd/Little Boy, and since I think it’s disrespectful for the bear to be nameless when we already have more than a hundred chapters, and I’d like to think that he’s in the Iron Fist tournament whenever he’s not with Leeha. So until the bear gets a proper name.

This is him now:
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“Cough, we won’t have our name in vain-.”

“Uh, this bastard is still out of his mind.”

Pak-! Pak pak!

Leeha held the Needle Gun upside down and hit the head of the director of planning using its butt.

“Ack! I-I’m sorry. Those spies, the name of their guild is Shinobigumi(忍組)/Ninja Squad. I don’t know their standards, but it’s a guild that targets specific users and sells information mainly by following or spying on them.”

“Shinobigumi…. Is the bastard called Oka-san its guild master? That means I was their target, right?”

“T-That’s right.”

The director of planning nodded his head quickly. The director of planning and Kyokujitsu kneeled.

The space was still locked, and the Fire Bear over level 100 was behind them, ready to chew them at any moment,

If they didn’t answer honestly, they would be beaten to death with a musket’s butt, and they would be fed the potion that Shin Nara gave Leeha.

Leeha tortured the two of them so much that he wondered if he got fascinated with it since he caught a rabbit with a musket’s butt.

‘20 minutes before Kuma disappears. That was it for Mame Hana and Matsushige.’

Even Kyokujitsu and the director of planning did not know the details.

Now that they have spat out as much as they knew, it was time to sort out the real problem.

Shinobigumi was a matter that could be dealt with the next time.

“Kyokujitsu.”

“Y-Yes!”

“You probably know.”

“W-what are you talking about?”

The giant quietly tilted his head. Leeha smiled softly at his appearance.


“Haha, you don’t know?”

“What are you talking about-.”

“What? Is this fucking bastard still out of his mind?”

“Ah, I know! I know!”

As Leeha grabbed the broken barrel, Kyokujitsu responded like lightning.

“What.”

“Rising Sun…”

Gulp, Kyokujitsu swallowed his saliva and looked at Leeha.

Ttuk. He wasn’t able to think of anything else other than that word.

At least, it should be over for now. Even if he got out of this place.

“It should be disbanded.”

“Right. Even if you don’t disband, you know you’re going to go bankrupt anyway, right? I don’t know, but the rumors have already spread that you brought 500 people and all of them got killed, right?”

“Yes, maybe…”

Even if it didn’t happen right away, it was just a matter of time.

Will the low-level guild members stay if they knew that all the Rising sun combatants from the head office died?

They have no choice but to leave once they realize that they will get killed indiscriminately by Leeha as long as they wear the Rising Sun guild mark.

This incident would start a large-scale exodus, and Kyokujitsu has lost the power to stop it.

Moreover, by the end, he was directly beaten by Leeha… There was no possibility of a reversal.

“I have given you the chance to disband by yourself. Rather than slowly getting ruined, it is better to exit gracefully. Of course, if that happens-.”

“The guild battle will be recorded as the victory of 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』.”


“Of course.”

Kyokujitsu trembled in anger.

He was on the verge of losing everything, it was not just a simple defeat. The situation in Middle Earth was naturally humiliating and he had never experienced it in reality.

“Are you mad?”

“N-no, that’s not it-”

“Then what is it?”

“Yes?”

“What do you mean by yes? This bastard is out of his mind!”

“Ahk!”

Ppak! Ppak!

The kneeling giant was as big as Leeha standing straight, but Leeha wasn’t afraid.

Leeha smashed Kyokujitsu with the needle gun that was cut in half. When he realized he got hit, Kyokujitsu got angry.

“You bastards ruined my gun too! You have to pay for this!”

“I-I’ll compensate you!”

“There’s no need!”

Isn’t he just crazy? However, Kyokujitsu couldn’t say it.

Ppak, ppak, ppak!

Kyokujitsu tried to cover his head, but Leeha aimed for the spaces which he could not cover.

Tak, tak, tak!

‘Keuk, this bastard! Just watch! I will pay you back for this humiliation!’


Kyokujitsu, who was getting beat up, had a plan of his own.

Guild? He could just create a new one. It would be easier because he had already done it once.

And it would be okay as long as he didn’t aim for Ha Leeha.

It will take time to build up a similar prestige as the Rising Sun, but that was okay. If he could just stand up again.

Isn’t it a Japanese characteristic to rise again after a defeat! Most importantly, unlike in the past when he started with nothing, he had capital!

“Then I will disband-.”

“Before you do that, don’t we have something important to do? Hey, manager?”

“Yes?”

“I heard the word contract earlier… Your guild will get disbanded anyway, so you have to pay the price for the evil deeds you have done in the past, no?”

Kyokujitsu and the director of planning’s eyes widened. pay?

“Gold…? Are you asking for gold?”

“I want to eat it all, but if I eat it carelessly, I might get sick.”

How much do they have?

Although their sales have slowed down lately, they must have stockpiled a significant amount of gold.

He wanted it. He definitely wanted it. However, Leeha also knew, what would happen if he took all the money?

‘Next time, I will be the target. Rising Sun was an organization, that’s why high-level users left it alone, but I am alone.’

He might play the game getting chased by high levels and rankers he didn’t know…

It was best not to touch the shitty money.

So, there was a method Leeha thought of.

How to destroy the Rising Sun so that it will never be able to rise again, first was to destroy their capital.

“Then……?”

“According to what you bastards said earlier, the effect of the 『 Contract 』 is enforced by the Middle Earth system, right? So, does that mean you have to follow it ‘unconditionally’?”

“T-That’s right.”

“Give it away. To the low-level users that cried because of you.”

“What?!”

“The Middle Earth system would do it. Based on the records of the users who died by the Rising Sun guild members, they would recover the amount they suffered. Well, if that doesn’t work, you’ll have to return all of the money equally.”

There will definitely a log record.

If he could force the action of the other party by using a 『 Contract 』, Leeha thought his idea would be possible.

Kyokujitsu and the director of planning mouths dropped open when they heard Leeha’s words.

They had not tried it before, but they realized that Leeha’s methods made sense.

“T-That-.”

“Or not? Do you want to die until you run out of all your money and items?”

Kyokujitsu’s pupils trembled. It was a simple choice.

“Would you like to spit it out? Will you spit it out? You’re a bastard who should have earned a lot of money so far! As long as I don’t take it, it should be considered a good deed. Manager? Take out the contract.”

“Y-yes!”

“Director of planning! You dare without my orders-”

“Why bastard talk so loud?”

Pak, pak!

Kyokujitsu, who tried to stop the director of planning, got beaten again. Although his HP did not change much, it was a little bit painful and made him feel bad.

In the meantime, the director of planning quickly wrote down the contents of the contract, based on Leeha’s words.

“Hmm… Hmm… Okay. Can you please sign it, Kyokujitsu-nim?”

Leeha signed and passed it after thoroughly reading the contract twice or thrice to see if there was any unfavorable clause.

Once the Kyokujitsu signed, the Rising Sun guild and all of its existing capital would disappear.

“It’s over anyway, so don’t pretend that you’re the victim and sign it quickly.”

In a little while, the ‘kid’ will disappear. Leeha urged Kyokujitsu.

As mentioned before, the Rising Sun was a dam with a hole in it. Kyokujitsu had no choice because it could collapse at any moment.

“I will… sign it…”

Scribble, scribble, scribble.

Kyokujitsu signed the contract.

As soon as the corner of Leeha’s mouth went up, the celebratory sound rang out.

Celebratory sound and system alert resounded through Middle Earth.

『 The war between Rising Sun Guild and Setting Sun Desperado has ended. 』

『 Setting Sun Desperado has won. 』

“Surely…”

“What?”

“I will definitely get my revenge Ha Leeha…”

It was all over now.

After the guild war was over, Kyokujitsu, who thought that Leeha would not kill him, revealed his ambition.

Did Leeha hit him after hearing that? No, Leeha did not.

The troubles Leeha had since he started fighting Rising Sun, and the way he couldn’t solve it because there was no suitable target!

It was a good moment to use the second method to destroy the Rising Sun.

“Ah, did you say you were a director there?”

“Huh, yes?!”

“Anyway, this bastard is going to make a guild again right? How about if the director makes a new one this time instead?”

“W-what are you saying…?”

The director of planning looked at Leeha and Kyokujitsu alternately with a puzzled expression.

“Rising Sun disappeared. But what’s next? Who will take Rising Sun’s spot?”

“Of course, the president will make a guild again…Ah!”

“Haha, yes. The director of planning has a good brain, and you must have been doing everything for that bastard, right?”

The director of planning’s eyes widened.

Right, rising Sun has disbanded. All of the guild’s capital is gone.

In other words, the Rising Sun got completely annihilated! The multi-level villainous guild is no more!

“Director of Planning! You bastard! If you betray me, I won’t let you go!”

Kyokujitsu read Leeha and the director of planning’s thoughts, and quickly made his move, however, it was already too late.

“Well, your head is working at last.”

Leeha smiled at Kyokujitsu’s reaction. If Kyokujitsu reacted like that, then he must have been right.

The director of planning was a person who stood next to Kyokujitsu and learned his skills while going through Rising Sun’s ups and downs.

The director of planning rolled his eyes at Kyokujitsu.

“President- no, right now, you’re no longer the president, are you? You didn’t pay me much, you must have taken all the profits yourself, right? Is there a law that says I can’t be the president?”

“This, this bastard一”

“Don’t call me a bastard, Kyokujitsu-san. We could be business partners in the future.”

Looking at the director of planning’s attitude, Leeha was sure of success. The second Rising Sun would not develop

He got the idea from Kijung’s words, and it was the plan to create an era of warring states.

‘Haha, I can’t wait to see Rising Sun rebuilt again. If Kyokujitsu formed another guild that is united, it would soon be the case. However, if another guild was created that followed the Rising Sun’s system? Not only the 2nd and 3rd but also the 99th and 100th would be born at the same time!’

(To be continued…)
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Most people now know that the Rising Sun system was cowardly and dirty, however, it money.

It’s not just the planning department.

Those with little brain, after hearing the disbandment of Rising Sun, will rush in to take their place.

‘There are prerequisites for making such money. The size! They should be large like the Rising Sun.’

However, when they are competing with each other, it would be inevitable that their size would be smaller.

What would happen if an evil guild was small? They would be of no threat at all. Because low-levels would be able to unite together and fight as much as they want.

A guild with 6000 members is scary, however, what if there were 100 or 1000 guilds with 60 or 6 members, then would not be fearsome at all!

Most importantly, for the time being, they won’t be able to steal items from low level users.

Those small evil guilds would need to fight each other in order to reach the scale of Rising Sun.

In other words, it would take a long time for a unified evil guild to be reborn with a scale as huge as the Rising Sun.

‘It would be impossible in the future. Kek.’

These were the two methods Leeha had thought of to disband Rising Sun.

Eliminate their wealth and divide their human resources. After removing those two elements, all that was left would be peace.

“Do the two of you have time to argue now?”

“Yes?”

“Then……?”

Leeha looked at Kyokujitsu and the director of planning, and smiled.

He couldn’t hold back his laughter.


“Doesn’t it look like the space lock has been released?”

The light purple particles disappeared.

Kyokujitsu and the director of planning stood up at the same time and stared.

“I will go first!”

“Not this time!”

Shoo- Shoo-!

The two people disappeared one after the other.

“Haha, you’re not the only ones. I have to upload the video on the internet first.”

Kyokujitsu and the director of planning have the know-how.

No matter how other guilds follow, these two would lead the way. Then how would Leeha stop them?

‘It’s putting up a video of their shameful defeat on the internet. So that there would be no one to join their guilds. It’s a video of them getting beat up.’

Although Leeha didn’t kill Kyokujitsu, a single death did not matter in Middle Earth.

At least Leeha would bring them suffering worse than death.

“Ahahahaha…Ahahaha… I won, I freaking won!!!!”

Near the small house with no monsters or people, Leeha’s laughter echoed loudly.

The laughter came from the bottom of his heart.

Leeha deserved to laugh. He fought against a guild with 6000 members and won.

He was victorious in the guild battle!

As Kijung jokingly said, Leeha became the savior of the low-level users of Middle Earth.

—Please read at https://betterdaystranslations.wordpress.com/ —


Riin–. Riing–.

“Ah..”

Riing— Riiing——

“What kind of crazy person… at dawn.”

Leeha opened his eyes and looked at his smartphone.

It has only been a few hours since he laid his tired and brittle body down and slept!

What was worse, what kind of crazy person would call at 2am in the morning?

“Ah, Kijung.”

– Hyung!!!!!!!!!

“Ouch! Hey… W-What’s going on? Why are you suddenly screaming?”

– Wahhh!!!!!!!!

“This bastard! You’re going to destroy my ears! Why did you call you punk! What is it!”

Leeha grumbled but there was a smile on his face.

If Kijung’s reaction was like this, there was only one reason. And he didn’t tell him about it on purpose.

– What!! This video! What is this!!! What happened!!!!

“Hahaha, were you looking around the internet just now?”

– Hey, it’s not like I’m looking around aimlessly! You really won? Is it over? Is it really over?

“Ssh, you’re getting excited again. Don’t you know the Mage of Clouds? The 『Setting Sun Desperado 』 has won. I captured the message and uploaded it.”

– There’s that too! What is this, this! 『 Genocide 』!

“What? Didn’t you contact me after seeing the video and article? What do you mean by genocide?”


– No, I just called you after seeing a video of the Rising Sun that someone posted. The internet is going crazy right now! Don’t you know about the ‘Massacre at the Lightless Forest’?

“Oh.”

The corner of Leeha’s mouth, (there is a context error, not able to figure out what was meant) had closed his eyes the phone, went up.

That’s right, someone filmed that too. He must have been one of the victims.

“I expected rumors to spread, but to think that there was even a video.”

– 『 Genocide 』, 『 Reaper of Darkness 』. What is this… this isn’t even a joke. It’s on the internet. It starts with, who is Ha Leeha, and there’s even How to enter the Setting Sun Desperado guild!

“Really? Haha, I’ll have to check it out tomorrow. I need to get some sleep first. I’ve been up for more than 3 days. I haven’t slept for a full month in Middle Earth time. Talk to you later.”

– Oh! If it’s possible, I want to go to your house later and have a drink! But I understand, talk to you later.

“Haha, thank you. Go to sleep.”

– Hyung, check the internet as soon as you wake up tomorrow-.

“Okay, okay. Goodnight.”

Leeha smiled and hung up the phone. Until the last moment, Kijung was praising Leeha.

‘This should be enough……right?’

It worked. The plan he made for Rising Sun’s complete collapse worked.

If there was that much uproar the internet, even if Kyokujitsu made another guild, no one would join him.

‘And the distribution of damage compensation will start soon…. After that, it would be crazy.’

It was the first time he saw the activation of the item 『 Contract 』. The fulfillment of the mandatory obligations was indeed done by the system.

However, because the contract between Leeha and Kyokujitsu needed time to be analyzed by the system, a notification appeared saying that it would only be activated after a day in reality.

‘I’ll check it tomorrow evening. I’ll sleep for now.’

He didn’t even have the strength to check it now. Leeha’s eyes closed.

Even as he slept, Middle Earth and the Internet community were in turmoil.

It was 2 am in Korea, but it wasn’t the same for other countries.

Leeha’s actions gained popularity all over the world.

A woman in a blue pajama with white polka dots clicked, and watched the video carefully.

“Unni. This.”

Ram Hwajung called her older sister, Ram Hwayeon, but Hwayeon did not even look at her younger sister.

“Come on, hwajeong. You don’t grow taller because you lack sleep every day.”

She wore red pajamas with yellow stripes.

She wore pajamas, but the three tablets spread around the table and checking various information made it obvious that she was ‘working’.

It was 1am in Hong Kong. However, as a workaholic who did not commute from work to home, she was not restricted by time and space at all.

“It’s Ha Leeha.”

“What?”

Her action of gathering information about Middle Earth and reality at the same time stopped.

“Ha Leeha?”

“Yes. And Rising Sun. Victory.”

“G-get out of the way!”

Hwayeon put aside the tablet and went towards Hwajung. As soon as she approached, hwajeong gave her the chair.

“Surely… Do you mean this video is really Ha Leeha? The Mage of Clouds is Ha Leeha?”

“Yes. The 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild master is Ha Leeha. It was a 『 Genocide 』.”

“Genocide.?”

It was the title of the page that Hwajung accessed. It was a massacre! Hwayeon watched the video with Hwajung.

In the Lightless forest, whenever flames flashed, Leeha’s figure was caught.

“Really……”

Explosions, iron bullets getting spilled, and gunshots were heard.

The battlefield was so chaotic that one would wonder if it was hell.

“Waa……. Isn’t it amazing? How many did he fight alone- 500? 500?”

Hwayeon’s eyes widened as she read the article.

“Some of them are level 120. Ha Leeha’s estimated level is 80-90.”

“Really? Is that true Hwajung?”

At Hwayeon’s question, the blue-haired kid nodded her head. Her long, straight hair fluttered.

“Level 80… No, even if it’s level 90. He beat 500 people who are level 100 or higher…”

Hwayeon remembered the time she met Leeha.

He was definitely different. His shooting skill could kill Black Angus in one shot, and his confident attitude also not getting discouraged in front of them.

In her daily life, where businessmen in their 40s and 50s bow in front of her, it was quite a unique and fun experience.

‘So fast… and hasn’t he grown a lot…?’

Hwayeon also had something in mind after the Battle of Tiwi Canyon.

Although Feiwu was an ally, their expansion had been sluggish since the Russian Bear intervened.

Not to mention the subtle interference of Korean Guilds, was more annoying.

‘I was looking forward for him to… come to our guild. However, even during the Battle of the Tiwi Canyon, what was Leeha’s level?

At that time, she also wanted to send people to observe Leeha but decided that he still needed a lot of time to grow, so the plan was abandoned.

‘But if it was this big… He also has the advantage of being Korean. Korean guilds including Byulcho…maybe there would be room for negotiation.’

Hwayeon looked at Hwajung. Hwajung nodded as if reading her sister’s thoughts.

“I like it, unni.”

“Hee, does our Hwajung also have a man she likes?”

“I-I didn’t mean it like that.”

“Oh my? Why is your face red?”

“It’s not. Cut it out.”

Hwajung bowed her head, got up from the chair and went to bed.

A smile crept on her lips as she looked back.

‘Is Hwajung going to do it? No, that’s not it Anyway, if Hwajung agrees, Ha Leeha will definitely be great help.’

Hwayeon became more and more determined by watching several videos, newly uploaded posts, and screenshots by Leeha.

‘I need to bring him.’

— Support the translator by upvoting his post here: https://peakd.com/trending/arcane-sniper —

“What are you looking at like that, isn’t it time to sleep?”

“I will sleep right after work. Boss.”

dealer in Texas, where small flies flew, an employee sat at a stand and looked at the monitor with his hat pressed down.

“Oh? What is this? Is this a movie?”

“It’s a game video.”

What ran on the screen was Leeha’s video collection.

Leeha’s ‘fans’ made a montage of his videos.

From shooting the Rising Sun branch office to 『 Genocide 』.

It was made like a movie by adding special effects to the original video.

(To be continued…)
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“Hey, the world is getting better. Huh? Oh, a musket? Isn’t that a musket?”

“Yes.”

As the bald middle-aged man in sunglasses looked at the screen and talked to him, the employee with a hat nodded his head.

“Is he Asian? Chinese?”

“I don’t know.”

“He’s pretty good! Isn’t he shooting pretty well?”

“…The accuracy is good, but it’s a pity that it’s slow.”

The employee’s eyes were shining under the wide-brimmed hat. He carefully looked at Leeha’s hand gesture, which he couldn’t see properly on the screen.

“With a musket, that’s great! It’s not a revolver so he couldn’t shoot continuously, right? Hahaha!”

“Right.”

Every time Leeha’s hands in the video moved, the employee’s hands moved along with Leeha as well.

The movement was similar to reloading gunpowder and bullets.

However, it could not be compared with Leeha’s speed.

“I can’t comment on it. It’s an ordinary musket.”

“What? What?”

Riing-!

When the dusty alarm clock rang, the employee immediately stood up.

“I will get to work. Boss.”


“Carl, carl. Would it be bad if I watch for another 30 minutes?”

“Your extra pay is 1.5 times higher.”

“Okay, okay. Hurry up and go to sleep! Even if I tell you to work, you’ll go to sleep anyway.”

The bald middle-aged man pushed the employee to the back. The staff was accustomed to packing their things and leaving through the store door.

“See you tomorrow.”

“Sweet dreams! Kidd-ssi.”

— Read at betterdaystranslations.wordpress.com –

“Haaaa……. I slept well.”

By the time Leeha woke up and rubbed his eyes, it was already 2 pm.

‘Oh, how many hours have I slept?’

He stayed up all night for 3 days, so it’s not like Leeha slept a lot. Still, it felt good to have a refreshed body.

Most importantly, it relieved him of his mental burden.

“Haha, thinking about it, I am proud of myself. I wasn’t sure I would win.”

Grumbling, Leeha moved his body to the wheelchair and headed towards the computer.

Is the internet going crazy? He expected it to be quite a mess.

Also, it should be possible to tell the RIsing Sun victims that they could get compensation for the damage they received.

“Let’s see… Oh? Wow!!” Ha Leeha who opened his browser could not help but be surprised.

The community page had not been opened yet, but things came up as soon as he opened his browser. Familiar names appeared in the search queries.

‘What is this? Dave’s real-time queries?’

Middle Earth was in 2nd place, setting Sun Desperado was in 6th place, and Rising Sun was in 8th place, the three phrases proudly went to top 10.


‘Ha Leeha.’

(not sure if he is mentioned in the top 10 )

Leeha couldn’t believe it. Rising Sun was a fairly large guild. In terms of ‘class’, rising Sun was considered as one of the world-class guilds.

Of course, the level of its guild members was low, but that didn’t have an impact. At least in terms of organizational power and numbers, it was recognized as an A-class guild!

In other words, there was a reason why it was being discussed like this.

“Kek- I-it even appeared in a news article?”

Even in the news section of the site, his work was getting covered.

“Middle Earth. David was with us. A summary of articles related to the disbandment of Rising Sun.

’Huh…Oh my goodness.”

Although it was not related to politics, current events, or economic news, it was the main event in E-Sports and game news!

Leeha swallowed his saliva and looked at the article.

Rising Sun’s evil deeds, members, and organizational charts were drawn, and it diligently explained the structure that no one could touch.

When 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 and 『 Ha Leeha 』 appeared in the article Leeha was somewhat embarrassed.

‘No one attacked Goliath until he was by a stone. Maybe everyone gave up from the start. However, a hero like David appeared and fought Goliath- What are they talking about!’

Leeha’s face was so hot that he couldn’t read it properly!

He scrolled down and looked through the comments, but all the comments praised him. There were no malicious comments, not even one…

“That was why Kijung made a fuss…”

The portal site is like this, then what about the Middle Earth community?

The bulletin board was completely devastated, the community top 20 all included articles and videos related to Leeha and Rising Sun.

“Oh my god.”


Leeha had no choice but to stick his tongue to the achievements he committed(?).

『 Let’s start with praising Ha Leeha-nim once a day. 』

『 Title: Ho.. ly.. sh.. it.. Rising Sun will compensate the damage they made? 』

『 Title: Genocide Mad – what appeared at 2:40, is it a bomb? 』

『 Title: There are so many musketeers in Candle Castle =〉=〉!! Crazy guys. 』

『 Title: 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild. What is it? Has anyone joined the Top 50 guild? 』

『 Title: No, how can it be like this?! 1: 500 players is not possible! 』

『 Title: If it’s going to be like this, they should create a separate Ha Leeha bulletin board. He’s all over the place. 』

He is in all of today’s best. All the newly updated posts, and comments, it’s all related to Leeha.

“Oh, hoho…”

What kind of reaction should he have other than scratching his nose? More importantly, the fact that his ID was so popular got into Leeha’s mind.

‘I got a lot of things, including the disbandment of Rising Sun…’

In the future, tikal or anyone else would no longer come to touch him.

Rising Sun’s existing personnel won’t even come to take revenge. They will never know when they die again.

However, he also felt that he lost a lot.

‘I was going to monopolize the bomb for a bit!’

It will definitely be investigated by curious players.

Low-class improvised explosives would no longer be exclusive to Ha Leeha.

‘Well, I didn’t like it when it came up as ‘low-class’ anyway. If other people follow suit, I can just study higher-level stuff.’

‘It’s not advanced level yet, but I can deal with basic bombs, so I should try more diverse things.’

However, Leeha did not only lose the bomb monopoly.

Most importantly, it bothered him that his ID was known.

The fact that his every move could be observed by someone was the scariest thing for Leeha.

‘I still feel dejected because of the people from Shinobigumi…’

The guild that Matsushige and Mame Hana belonged to. It could be said that their guild master had been paying attention to Leeha from the beginning.

However, unlike Rising Sun, their identity was completely hidden.

There were no clues anywhere on the internet, so it was very frustrating.

‘Rising Sun was a visible enemy. So it was rather comfortable. However, shinobi-gumi is invisible.’

He didn’t know who they were. Are they Leeha’s enemies? At least at the request of Rising Sun, they were clearly enemies that attacked Leeha.

‘But now? Rising Sun disbanded. I don’t know how the contract between the two guilds came about…’

Will Shinobigumi attack Leeha even after Kyokujitsu gone? Or will it stop with ‘observation’ as before?

What if they were a neutral, money-driven organization?

‘Can I perhaps use them? I wonder how much they know about me.’

Leeha looked at the monitor with his arms crossed for a moment. He did not know when they started observing him.

Was it because an unusual appeared, so he became the object of observation? Or was there a separate criterion for achieving specific achievement? How many members do they have that are spying on players?

“Aaah!! Anyway, there were many ways to enjoy Middle Earth. One can just level up and get items! And hunt bosses!”

However, the world in the game had already become no different from reality.

Middle Earth already made a significant impact on reality. It went beyond the category of simply enjoyable games.

‘Anyway, thinking like this won’t make a difference anyway.’

There was nothing he could do. He just stopped and let it be. After going through the Rising Sun incident, Leeha gained sufficient confidence.

Confidence that he wouldn’t lose no matter who he faced.

The confidence that even the worst job of being a musketeer depended on the player.

“Let’s log in.”

Kiik, kiik, the hand pushing the wheelchair required strength.

“W-what is this?”

He logged in to Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel kingdom, which was the last place he logged out from. As soon as he logged in, a notification he had never seen before appeared.

‘

『 You have received mail. Please check your mailbox. 』

『 You have received mail. Please check your mailbox. 』

『 A total of 873 mails have arrived. Please check your mailbox. 』

“Kuwaak! Crazy!”

Leeha knew that his popularity wouldn’t last long, it’s temporary, but….

“This is crazy!”

He wouldn’t be able to sit down and read 873 mails. Leeha’s head rang while he headed to the post office, thinking of filtering it properly.

It felt like someone put a vibrating massager in his head.

– Oh? He’s here.

– Ha Leeha-nim! Ha Leeha-nim!

– Hello, I’m a level 150 damage-type warrior, I would like to-.

– Really?

“Waaaah!!! He blocked the indiscriminate whispers! Block function.”

Whispers that flew in and out annoyed Leeha.

In the end, all but those who were in his friends’ list or people Leeha designated were automatically rejected.

He didn’t have any conversations to share with them.

‘More than anything else, I have no intention of maintaining this guild!’

He saw it on the bulletin, so there were only two types of people who wanted to whisper to Leeha.

They either want to chat and hear Leeha’s story or want to join the 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild. Leeha did not want any of that.

“Phew…”

It was only after Leeha blocked all the whispers that found stability. His face was known but in Middle Earth, it was not easy to recognize someone only by looking at them.

Leeha’s face was not particularly outstanding, and he did not have the weapon that could be used to identify the ‘Mage of Clouds’.

‘Needle Gun…’

Right now, Leeha could not be called a musketeer.

He pulled out the broken Needle Gun from his bag.

‘Can they fix this? No, you can’t even call it fixing, it’s on the level of recreation.’

If everything went according to plan, Leeha could have used the musket for a while longer.

After sufficiently practicing the Snipe skill using Needle Gun, he would clear 『 Miss Elizabeth’s Will 』 quest. After getting the Black Bass, he planned to sell the Needle Gun.

‘Phew, that’s not happening anymore.’

He vainly touched the ball that had been bitten by the Flint and opened and closed the gunpowder plate to appease his regrets.

Two-thirds of its barrel was cut off, and more than half of the musket’s butt fell off, so Leeha carefully put what was left of the musket back into his bag.

The joy of disbanding Rising Sun had been buried by the hardships of reality.

(To be continued…)
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In fact, Leeha did not earn anything. At least in terms of money, he got nothing.

‘It’s negative! No, it’s fortunate that I obtained items from the Lightless Forest.’

He didn’t even check his level properly, but he made sure to get the items.

However, it would be better to sell them at the store. 15 gold at most? Maybe under 5 gold?

Leeha’s attacks were wide-range explosives such as bombs and claymores.

Since the users were blown up, their items were damaged as well, it was fortunate that Leeha was able to get at least a few in good condition.

‘Compared to that, the amount I invested was around 50 gold. I really used up all my fortune.’

Leeha’s balance was around 30 ‘silver’. Except for the return scroll and a few teleportation scrolls, there was nothing left.

Even if he received backlash, Leeha was so poor that he thought that it would have been good if he had swallowed Rising Sun’s capital.

“Phew, of course, I got no profit!” However, there were other great things. Things that could not be converted to money.

Leeha had a brief look at the logs of the past days.

『 Achievement: Summary Judgment (C-). 』

Congratulations! You have killed a criminal with a chaotic index of 300 or higher! Criminals who commit evil deeds deserve death! We ask for the order of Middle Earth in the future.

Reward: 10 stat points

『 Achievement: Hate the sin. Hate the sinners too (C). 』

Congratulations! You have killed more than one criminal with a chaotic index of 400 or higher! You have cut through wicked sin. You have also cut through people, but what does it matter? Sin is the responsibility of those who committed it!

Reward: 11 stat points


『 Achievement: Guild War Victory – Rising Sun (B). 』

Congratulations! You have won against the B-Grade guild Rising Sun. The name of the 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』s guild master will spread rapidly throughout Middle Earth.

Reward: 14 stat points

(This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame)

‘I got 35 stat points. And there’s something else that is better than these achievements!’

Leeha managed to hold back his laughter and looked back at the achievement window.

It was a truly brilliant achievement. There was a reason why people praised him until their mouths dried.

『 Achievement: Incarnation of the Battlefield (A-). 』

Congratulations! You have killed more than 500 enemies in one battle. The blood of your enemies formed a river, and you smiled proudly in front of their corpses. People praise you for showing the devil’s face to your enemies and the back of an angel to your allies!

Reward: 15 stat points

You are the third registrant of the achievement 『 Incarnation of the Battlefield 』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: 32 stat points

“…The Incarnation of the Battlefield.”

This was the first A-class achievement that Leeha got. It wasn’t only 500 people. Kill 500 or more in one battle.

In other words, he had dealt with 500 people during the time he didn’t log out.

It was absurd to Leeha that someone had gotten this monstrous achievement besides himself, but he could at least guess who the other one was.

‘Isn’t it Agromni Igor?’

The Russian Berserker. That monster could easily fight a 1:500 battle.

He already had demonstrated abilities close to that in the Tiwi Canyon.


‘Anyway, 35 plus 16 plus 32 stat points, for a total of 83 stat points from achievements…!’

Puhaha, Leeha opened the character window. If he got 83 stat points, how many was it in terms of level?

‘And that’s not everything yet!’

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 92 (48%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 31 HP: 3,520 / MP: 740

Stats: Strength: 73 (+58)

Agility: 701 (+171)

Intelligence: 83 (+52)

Constitution: 135 (+42)

Mind: 33 (+23)

Remaining stat points: 83

These were his stats so far. The stats he obtained by reaching level 92.

He got a total of 140 including the stat bonus one got every 10 levels starting from level 67.

‘What if I add the 83 stat points to that?’

Leeha got a total of 223 stat points while he leveled up 25 times. And every level only 5 stat points were given.

If one didn’t smile at that, then one wouldn’t be human.

“I guess I would put 20 to intelligence and the rest will go to agility.”

Leeha saw a lot of improvement in his physical movements when it got to 700. He believed that getting to 800 and 900 would make him faster.

Stat: Strength: 73 (+58)


Agility: 764 (+171)

Intelligence: 103 (+52)

Constitution: 135 (+42)

Mind: 33 (+23)

Remaining stat points: 0

“Great! Then before going to the post office, I should stop by the academy.”

His level changed a lot, not to mention his stats.

The standards of getting measured by NPCs had changed, and Leeha decided to stop by the academy, in anticipation that he would receive a different quest from Browless.

‘Hu, was it mentioned that there are more musketeers?’

Leeha somewhat pitied the beginners.

They started Middle Earth after watching his videos, and then they chose Musketeer as their job? They were so unfortunate! If they can’t turn off the combat assistance system, then there’s no job worse than a musketeer…

‘It seems that many users have stopped playing the game after three months. Hehe.’

Most couldn’t stand it. However, if there were outstanding users among them, he expected it to be interesting in its own way.

Leeha entered the Musketeer Academy, imagining that one day, they would have a great building like the other .

“Director, are you there!”

Creak-.

He had never been here, ever since he fought Rising Sun. However, Leeha felt a sense of incongruity beyond that.

‘There’s someone here.’

He felt thrilled in the dark hallway.

At first, he thought that musketeers from Candle Castle or other beginner villages came to the academy, however, this was different.

‘This doesn’t feel like low-levels.’

When he fought Rising Sun, Leeha’s senses extremely developed.

It was enough to distinguish between simple animals, monsters, and human traces. The massacre in the Lightless Forest may have only been possible thanks to that.

Leeha carefully took out the broken needle gun from his bag.

Of course, he didn’t mean to shoot with it. He wondered if he could simply beat the unknown person using the musket’s butt.

‘I think it’s ridiculous as well. This wouldn’t help if someone wanted to do PVP in the capital.’

He would get stabbed with a knife before he could wield it. Leeha stepped carefully.

There was the sound of words riding in the wind.

“Are you still like that?”

The first thing he heard was Browless’s voice. It was a low voice, but he wasn’t particularly alert.

“It’s a miracle that you were able to talk without pointing your guns at each other.”

“This… It is because the two of you didn’t seem to get along…”

There was also the sound of drinking.

At least, the unknown person did not come to cause a riot.

‘Was there any other user who could have such a friendly conversation with Browless? NPC- No, I don’t think they’re an NPC…’

Leeha, who a blunt weapon, missed the time to go out.

Most importantly, he wondered what their conversation meant.

“But the third one looked pretty clever.”

“Hmm, I heard that he doesn’t come around these days, but I didn’t know that he would stand alone in a war against a large guild.”

“He should have grown a lot since the last time you saw him.”

“He should . I hope so. Now, I hope you can help him.”

“Help? Haha, it looks like you cherish him quite a bit. Or is it because he is the successor of Miss Elizabeth?”

“Haha, maybe.”

Leeha, who had been listening, got goosebumps.

What, now?

‘Are they talking about me?’

A war waged against a large guild. Miss Elizabeth’s successor.

There were only two people who met these two conditions in all of Middle Earth. He missed the time to go out.

‘No, if I appear now, I would look like an eavesdropper. I’d rather pretend that I-’

I should show myself! Show himself! Just as he was thinking, he heard the voice of the person talking to Browless.

“I can’t help him. He will become my rival someday.”

Those words stopped Leeha’s movements. Rival?

Leeha didn’t know who that person was.

What did he mean by rival? If such words came out while they were talking about him, Leeha wanted to hear more.

‘Who is he? Who the hell is he and why would I be his rival?’

Leeha listened more carefully. Browless sighed and continued.

“…You have already figured it out.”

“It was not that difficult. Besides, I don’t even need to help him. Just by mentioning this much should have helped.”

“Hmm? Why?”

Why? Leeha held his breath and waited anxiously for his words.

‘Who are you and what’s going on? Who is the person that the Headmaster is asking to help me, and who is the person that would be my rival?’

There was one more thing before that.

This was Musket Academy. What if he meant help with muskets?

‘If it’s like that… I won’t be mad. Since I don’t think there would be a lot of people who could compete with me in all of Middle Earth when it comes to shooting.’

Or was it to help me level up? That’s too weird. What does it mean to have already helped?

Their words did not continue even while Leeha cleared his mind for a moment.

Come on, tell me. What were you trying to say? Why did you say you didn’t need to help me? Besides, what did you already help with?

He hid behind the corner wall and listened, then-! A shadow appeared in front of Leeha

“Because he was already listening here.”

A stranger was looking down at Leeha.

“Waah–!! Y-you surprised me!”

Papapat-! Leeha purposely dropped the Needle Gun he held as he retreated.

He was so surprised that he almost swung it. If that person had been hit, PVP action would have taken place in the capital.

“Leeha-kun?”

“Uh… Director-nim. Hehe, hello. That, I didn’t mean to eavesdrop. I was walking and stopped- Uh – I suddenly heard a voice I wasn’t familiar with, so I stopped and went on alert for a moment.”

“Phew… Right, I understand. I commend you for being able to hide your presence that much.”

He shook his head. He looked at the Needle Gun that dropped on the floor.

“He’s more interesting than I thought, director-nim. There’s no need for my help.”

“Really?”

“Yes. I will visit again next time.”

“Come here often. You know there’s no one to talk to but you.”

The NPCs’ words were sentimental. A stranger would have thought the same as Leeha.

He said goodbye to Browless and looked at Leeha and the Needle Gun that fell on the floor once more.

“Well then.”

“Ah, yes.”

He lowered his head slightly toward Leeha, who picked up the Needle Gun.

Leeha responded without realizing it. What?

He was wearing a camel-colored thick coat and a wide-brimmed hat like Browless

One peculiar thing was that his musket was not visible.

(To be continued…)
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‘No weapon?’

It was reasonable to consider someone who could have a friendly conversation with Browless at the Musket Academy to be called a musketeer. However, he had no musket?

‘Long weapons such as muskets or spears don’t fit in the bag…’

Hmm, Leeha carefully looked at the person’s back, but he did not see any musket.

He left the academy without looking back.

“Okay, what happened? Ha Leeha-kun. It seems you’ve been doing something fun lately.”

“Ah, director. Haha, it was not a big deal.”

“Is that so?”

It was a question related to Rising Sun, and Browless asked with a smile, Leeha also replied with a smile.

Killing 500 people and disbanding a guild with 6000 members was not not a big deal. However, Leeha did not do it to boast.

“What are you up to today?”

“I came here to check if you could train me again.”

“No, I don’t have anything. Are you ready to take Elizabeth’s exam?”

“Ahh… No. Not yet.”

“Hmmm… Then there’s nothing I can do.”

Not yet. Leeha quickly nodded.

He was level 92. He could level up to 100 and come back again, and if there’s still no quest, then he would need to complete the wall that is Miss Elizabeth’s quest.


‘He is not going to let me do anything else until I complete that quest.’

It was fine. He still needed to practice anyway.

Leeha put work aside for now and asked what he was curious about.

“Ah, who was the person that was just here now?”

“Hmm? Ah, you don’t know yet?”

“What?”

“Then why did you ask me about him last time?”

“What?”

Browless burst into laughter as he thought it was absurd.

NPCs also had highs and lows. At least today, Leeha could see that Browless was in a very good mood.

“Didn’t you ask who Kidd was?”

“Ah- aahh! I-is that person ‘Sleeping’ Kidd?”

“I don’t know how he got the nickname ‘Sleeping’, but that is Kidd.”

The Kidd that Shin Nara talked about! Leeha glanced at the door and looked at Browless again.

“D-director-nim! I will come back again next time!”

“Hmm? Ah- Okay-.”

Before Browless could even finish talking, Leeha already ran.

He didn’t know who Kidd was or what he was famous for, but at least he could guess one thing.

‘He must be much more advanced than I am. If he is the person Shin Nara mentioned!’

So, he could help me a lot! Leeha hurriedly left the academy and looked around the roadside.


Numerous users and NPCs came and went.

‘Where did you-.’

However, it was not difficult to find Kidd.

Because from the academy on the way to the training ground, Kidd was leaning on the side of a tree and was looking at Leeha.

Judging from his posture, he must have been waiting for Leeha on purpose.

“Here, that- hello? You must be Ha Leeha.”

“…Kidd.”

He was biting on a leaf of grass. His outfit was already like that, and he was even biting on a blade of grass, so he looked like the main character of a movie.

‘Why was Nara-ssi looking for this person? Maybe he’s her boyfriend…? No, it didn’t feel that way.’

While Leeha looked at Kidd, he briefly opened his friends’ window. It said that Shin Nara was at the Royal Palace in Aelstock.

Kidd wore his hat tightly, but his eyes glanced at Leeha.

Leeha also noticed it.

“I’m sorry I eavesdropped earlier. I didn’t mean to overhear your conversation, but I was not used to seeing people in the academy…”

“It’s okay.”

“Hmm, are you a musketeer?”

Kidd nodded.

For some reason, Leeha had a feeling that the dress and the way Kidd spoke and behaved resembled Browless.

“It’s something I overheard, but… you said something like I’m your rival, and that I didn’t need any help. May I ask what that means?”

Shame is temporary but information is forever! Leeha thickened his face and asked Kidd.

Kidd also looked at Leeha, looked into the air and said.


“I don’t think you have succeeded in Elizabeth’s Legacy yet.”

“Ah…no, not yet.”

He didn’t need to hide it. Kidd must have already seen the musket hanging in the storage room.

“Your level is probably around 100.”

“Hmm…”

Leeha neither confirmed nor denied.

Kidd seemed to already know everything about Leeha.

“It’s low.”

“What?”

“Even if it’s low, it’s too low.”

“W-what are you talking about?”

“Phew… If it’s like this, you’re still a long way off.”

Then he took a deep breath. From what Leeha heard, it was all absurd. What did he mean by that? What’s low? evel?

‘Is he ignoring me?’

He did not Kidd’s attitude at all. Leeha took a peek.

Based on what Browless said earlier, he was already aware of Leeha’s fight against Rising Sun.

‘Did he say that even after watching the video?’

He wasn’t being arrogant, but he was proud of it.

Even though he used the terrain and mobilized all kinds of items, he still won a 1 vs 500 fight. Leeha also got the special achievement of Incarnation of the Battlefield.

“You’re no match to me.”

“Hmm, if you look down on a person like that without telling something about yourself, it wouldn’t feel good, would it?”

Leeha still had a polite tone, but his expression gradually distorted.

Kidd looked at Leeha for a moment and leaned his back against the tree.

Leeha flinched, but Kidd ignored Leeha and headed towards the academy training ground.

“E-excuse me!”

What is this bastard? Does he want me to follow him? Leeha’s heart felt heavy, but he still followed.

Kidd saw Leeha follow and headed towards a beautiful tree in the training ground.

“When a person talks, you should respond.”

Even when Leeha got angry, Kidd didn’t respond.

He looked at Leeha for a moment, and then ran and kicked the tree-! He kicked it.

“What?”

Was he angry at the tree? Did he get mad at me?

Leeha got flustered but Kidd’s expression did not change.

The tree that had been kicked had leaves dropping from it like rain.

“This tree drops 13 leaves in 1 kick.”

“What?”

“That was my test.”

“No, sorry, but don’t you know what a conversation is? We are not on the same wavelength-.”

What?

Test?

A word Kidd said reached Leeha’s brain.

Kidd knew about Elizabeth’s test. How did he know it? Besides, what did he mean by test? Right, I should have thought about it first.

How did he know about it? You can’t get that far if you’re an ordinary musketeer!

“No way…”

Leeha got goosebumps.

Three Musketeers.

To be precise, it was the Next Generation of the Three Musketeers!

『 Rapid Fire 』 Kidd.”

Kidd opened his mouth. He even scratched his cheek in embarrassment.

“I think I should be called that.”

『 Rapid Fire 』- If it’s Rapid Fire, Browless’s-”

Kidd nodded. He didn’t even answer Leeha properly.

Leeha’s anger disappeared because of Kidd’s strange attitude.

‘No way! No wonder Kidd is one of the next-generation Three Musketeers! No, it can be. That’s totally possible!’

He remembered what Browless said before. When Leeha asked about Kidd, he said, ‘You’ll find out when the time is right’.

‘What if he meant that I would find out after I became one of the next generation’s Three Musketeers? Kidd is also one of the next generation’s Three Musketeers. As he claimed, he inherited the 『 Rapid Fire 』 attribute…!’

In other words, he is Leeha’s senior.

Leeha looked at Kidd for a moment and recalled what he just said. 『 This was my test 』.

‘What?’

He looked at the leaves on the floor, but there didn’t seem to be anything special.

Did they put it 200m away and shoot it?

Leeha looked at Kidd, but Kidd didn’t say anything particular. After all, he looked like a person who did not know how to converse well.

“That, the test was to shoot these leaves… right?”

“That’s right.”

“How many meters? In Elizabeth’s case, she asked for a great distance. If you have any hints…”

Gulp, Leeha carefully asked Kidd. Of course, the content of the exam would be a little different.

However, it was a test to select the next generation of the Three Musketeers. Leeha hoped that he could get even the slightest hint.

“I shot there.”

“What? Here? Isn’t it less than 2m from the tree?”

Kidd nodded. Leeha thought it was absurd.

‘Headmaster Browless? What kind of test was it? How was this exam different from a walk in the park?’

Is it possible for a person to not hit a leaf 2m away? Much less a musketeer? Leeha looked at Kidd who said something unreasonable and now he was back at square one.

“Was the test hitting leaves from here?”

Kwaak-!

Instead of answering, Kidd kicked another willow tree.

Exactly 13 leaves fell. It took about 3 to 4 seconds for the 13 leaves to fall.

“Ah! You were supposed to hit the falling leaves, right?”

If that was the case, it was not that difficult. Hit the falling leaves in 3 seconds! One had to move pretty quickly to shoot.

However, it was not too difficult as long as one reloaded in advance. After all, there were 13 falling leaves, so why not just shoot one of them.

“Hmm, if it was Headmaster Browless, that would be pretty sloppy. However, if it’s rapid-fire, it should be at least two! There has to be something similar to that.”

“There was.”

“What?”

“I needed to hit 13 leaves.”

“…What?”

“The test was to hit all 13 targets.”

If jaws could drop in Middle Earth, Leeha’s would have dropped pretty hard.

He could not close his open mouth easily.

“W-what? Can you repeat that?!”

Leeha looked at Kidd and the fallen leaves alternately.

“Thirteen leaves? Your test was to hit 13 falling leaves?”

Kidd nodded.

“So? Did you pass? That? No way!”

He said it because he passed. Leeha also knew it.

But he couldn’t believe it, so he had to ask again.

“No-non, what-how…”

Leeha’s brain was confused and couldn’t speak at all. How the hell did he do that? 13 leaves.

As Leeha counted, the time it took for the leaves to fall from the branch to the ground after the kick was about 3 to 4 seconds.

‘He shot them all? It’s not just a quick shot. How… How could he do that with a musket?’

It was impossible. There was no way. It was impossible.

‘If it was for 4 seconds, he needs to shoot 3.25 shots per second to hit all 13 leaves. He had to reload within 0.3 seconds. What if the leaves fell within 3 seconds? He had to hit 4 leaves per second!’

Leeha would have snorted if he was told to hit 1 within 4 seconds. But 4 per second? It was impossible.

It was surprising at first, but no matter how much he thought about it, he couldn’t believe it. Leeha quickly calmed down.

“That’s absurd. And, Kidd-nim, no Kidd-ssi, no, senior? Anyway! You don’t even have a musket. If someone who didn’t even have a gun said it, I wouldn’t believe it. If it is the Next Generation of the Three Musketeers, there must be a musket that inherits that attribute-”

“If it’s a musket, I have it on me.”

“I didn’t see it though? I know you can’t put a musket in a bag. Don’t lie.”

“You should already know. Besides, you even made bombs.”

“Really! We should talk properly! It’s like talking to a wall, how could I understand?”

“Come here quickly.”

This bastard again! Oh, it felt like he was going crazy.

Was he talking like this on purpose? Is it something like “I want to tell you, but I can’t tell you everything, so I’ll give you a hint”?

Is it because he doesn’t want to answer my questions?

Leeha couldn’t read what Kidd was thinking. Perhaps it was a simple conversational habit, but it was clear that he was difficult to deal with.

(To be continued…)
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“Phew, I see. If you don’t want to answer…then I will just ask Browless what your test was, and what your musket was like. Instead, I’ll just ask you something else.”

Who was Kidd?

Leeha looked at him for a moment and opened his mouth.

“Why are you helping me? In this ambiguous way?”

“You didn’t want to a while ago. I might become a rival. Besides, when Browless asked you to help me, you didn’t want to. But you waited outside, revealed your identity, and whether it’s a hint or not, why did you do it? Do you want to help me, or do you want to hinder me?”

Leeha looked at Kidd to read his expression.

Kidd unwrapped his arms and scratched his cheek with his finger.

“Because I need the 『 Accuracy 』 attribute.”

“What?”

『 Pierce 』 attribute is strong.”

“What? Hahaha.”

What.

Leeha laughed and quickly got embarrassed.

At least he knew one thing. The person named Kidd did not just inherit the rapid-fire attribute.

‘He just says what he really wants to say. This kind of personality is just like Headmaster Browless.’

Kidd tilted his head as Leeha gasped for breath.

“It’s hard to talk anymore. So you need to catch up quickly.”


“Phew, okay. Okay. All right. I think I know a little bit about you, Kidd. Did you get the nickname ‘Sleeping’ because you talk like you’re asleep?”

“What?”

When he tidied up his hair, Leeha thought that he understood Kidd a little.

“You need it to become stronger. And it’s hard to tell me because you want to get stronger too, and it’s frustrating if you don’t tell me, but you feel like you’ll lose if you tell me directly… Right? What do you call this? Tsundere?”

“Tsundere? What does that mean?”

Kidd’s facial muscles moved and twitched.

“No, it’s nothing. Anyway, okay. I got it. So far, you’ve been saying that you have given me a ‘hint’, right?”

“That’s right.”

“Okay. I will pass the test quickly and get it. The title 『 Bulls-eye 』 Ha Leeha.”

At Leeha’s words, Kidd smiled.

Leeha thought that he had a hard time understanding Kidd’s personality and at the same time it’s hard to understand…

‘I think he’s like a child. You won’t be able to hit me.’ That was the first thing he said to Leeha…

Kidd understood Leeha’s final words to the point that he accepted cooperation, he nodded his head and took out a crystal ball.

“Well then.”

“Hahaha, yes. See you next time, Kidd.”

Bright light flashed from the crystal ball for a moment, and after a few seconds, Kidd’s figure disappeared.

“Waa…He’s the weirdest guy I met in Middle Earth.”

Leeha smiled and shook his head.

The leaves on the floor fluttered in the wind.

— Read at betterdaystranslations.wordpress.com


“Was it really the test?”

“Hmm. After he heard the test, he came back after 3 days and challenged it. It was great workmanship.”

“No way…”

Hearing Browless’s words, Leeha fell into confusion again.

Really? 13 leaves?

“How is that possible? I have become ‘skilled’ in delicate hand movement, but my reload time is still 25 seconds even when I use the skill.”

He didn’t just raise his level when he fought Rising Sun.

Leeha’s skills also rose significantly.

Delicate hand movement was also in intermediate grade, thanks to that, his reload time was reduced from 30 seconds to 25 seconds. However, it’s still 25 seconds.

It was another dimension from 4 seconds.

“Leeha-kun.”

“What?”

“Have you solved the problems I gave you in such a one-dimensional way?”

“Ah…”. That wasn’t it. I think I can see why Kidd spoke like that.

He had the same conversation with Browless.

He inherited the attribute as well as the personality.

Leeha grumbled inwardly, thinking about what Browless had said. He was 1 dimensional. Of course not.

If he was simple, he would have had a hard time clearing the quests from the Brass Golem until now.

‘It’s actually to hit 4 leaves per second, it didn’t mean to use 4 bullets.’

What if Kidd made 『 Grapeshot 』 like Leeha? When the leaves fell, they would be a reasonable distance from each other-! He would be able to hit 13 leaves.


But that was dependent on luck. He didn’t know the interval and what speed the leaves may fall, what if there were no leaves in the range of the grapeshot? It would be difficult to hit all 13 leaves.’

He needed to change the way he thought things beyond that. Leeha grunted for a while, but nothing came to his mind right away.

“Anyway, Kidd passed the test and took the Headmaster’s musket, right?”

“Right. They were the things I cherished, but I had to give them away”

“Hmmm. Right- huh? Cherished ‘them’?”

“What? Did I say that?”

Browless gently turned his head.

“You just said that, right?”

“Cough, the coffee is getting cold. Would you like another drink?”

“Director?”

Browless ignored Leeha and stood up.

Why was this really happening? Looking at Browless’s attitude, Leeha got the feeling that it was another hint.

‘He used a plural expression? How many muskets were there? No, Kidd didn’t have any musket, how could he have multiple? Did he get several and put them in the warehouse or something?’

That was so weird.

What kind of fool would intentionally leave their weapon? Moreover, it’s Middle Earth. When one died, their level would go down and they would drop their items.

‘I don’t have to worry about it for now! I’m worried that I won’t have a weapon since the Needle Gun is broken.’

Leeha took out the Needle Gun from his bag again.

Lightning struck Leeha’s head at that moment.

What about the musket? Where would he get a gun now?

『 You already probably know it. Didn’t you make bombs? Besides, you already have it. 』

“Ah-! Ahh-! W-w-wait, this?”

Right, Leeha had bombs.

Where did he get the 『 Lesser Improvised Explosives 』? Leeha himself ‘made it’.

Leeha got up and left his seat.

“I’ll be back director!” Browless did not answer. He just watched Leeha’s back as he ran away with a smile on his face.

‘Why didn’t I think of that earlier? There are already a lot of items shaped like shotguns!’ Leeha left the academy and went

to the store first.

It was a small amount, but after disposing of all of the items he obtained from the Lightless Forest…he had about 8 gold left

He didn’t get a lot of money because they were low-level , but Leeha didn’t even care about that.

The next place Leeha went to was the blacksmith shop.

It was generally used to make or reinforce items, and it was also the place where most of the ‘production’ jobs were concentrated Aelstock.

“I can reinforce your weapon! It depends on the weapon’s level, but the probability is over 55%!”

“Come, come, come sharpen your sword~ Sharpening can raise your sword’s cutting power! Your sword will work better when animal mobs!”

“I repair plate ! It takes 10 minutes to remove the creases and dents!”

“Who needs a two-handed sword~! Please commission a production request! We can make it for you, for only the cost of the ingredients!”

There were people shouting to make items stronger, and there were people shouting to raise their skills.

Leeha stopped by the blacksmiths from time to time. Just like the last time he repaired the barrel of the Needle Gun, he also came here several times to sharpen the small kitchen knife that he mainly used for cooking.

“Oh, hasn’t it been a while since you’ve shown your face?”

“Hello, Zeke-nim.”

Clang-! Clang-!

Every single hammering caused sparks to pop out of the anvil.

Blacksmith Zeke, an NPC who was proud of his thick forearms with burn marks everywhere.

‘If you looked closely, you would think that Middle Earth isn’t a Korean game.’

When Leeha first came to the smithy, he tilted his head at the name he had heard somewhere.

“Phew, right, what’s up? Did you come to inspect your musket’s barrel?”

“No, it’s not like that.”

“Then?”

A lump of unidentified iron that had been beaten for a long time was submerged in cold water.

Chiiiii—-!

The forge was quickly filled with steam. Seeing this, Leeha took the Needle Gun out of his bag.

“Here, take this-.”

“Eh? W-what is this? Was it cut off? Your gun was cut?”

“Yes. Some idiot cut it.”

That bastard tossed it away as food for Kuma. Zeke, who received the Needle Gun from Leeha, looked at the musket and shook his head.

“No, no.. It would be better to buy a new one. Even if I put on a new barrel, the joint won’t last long. If it is attached firmly, it would be difficult to handle due to the weight, and it would also be difficult to set it straight.”

“I know.”

“You know? Then why did you bring it out?”

Zeke scratched his head. Of what use was this useless item? Leeha picked up a piece of chalk that was rolling around on the forge’s floor.

“It’s not for attaching a new barrel.”

And he looked at the Needle Gun. More than a 3rd of the barrel had already been cut off.

Leeha, who held the Needle Gun, drew a white line on the center point of the remaining barrel using the chalk.

“I’d rather cut off what’s left.”

“C-Cut off? Will be able to shoot the bullets?”

“Yes, it will. Certainly.”

It was a hint Kidd gave when he revealed his identity.

Browless also gave a subtle hint. Leeha was certain.

‘In other words, the flintlock musket has a sawed-off form. By removing the musket’s butt and transforming it…’

Creating a new item was possible.

『 Flintlock Pistol 』. The creation of a compact, one-handed musket that could fit in a bag.

“Haha… Good. That would be 3 gold.”

“3 gold?!”

Although the price was than what Leeha imagined.

‘Bargaining!’

『Bargaining Skill has been activated.』

『The probability of the opponent being persuaded increases by 36%.』

Leeha didn’t want to pay up without reducing the price. The bargaining skill was now level 2. Leeha now resembled Middle Earth.

(To be continued…)
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“Is this all that you need?”

“Waa…”

『 You have acquired 1 Ordinary Needle Gun Pistol. 』

Its total length was 40 cm. The angular and dull musket’s butt was trimmed and turned into a handle that could be held in one hand.

Naturally, its barrel was incomparably shorter than a musket.

In other words, its size could be put inside a bag or worn around the waist and covered with clothes.

‘This is amazing… It’s worth it to spend 2 gold and 10 silver.’

It was not a cross-section that was roughly cut by Matsushige. The Blacksmith Zeke’s skills matched his reputation.

“I changed the grip as you ordered, and I added a little weight to keep the balance. Well, if you want it to fit your hands better, you would need to take it to the woodworker. It would have been better to file it more, but I’m not good with the specific details.” “No, this is enough! As expected of Zeke!”

“Cough, well, I’m glad that it’s worth the money.”

Zeke shrugged his shoulders and wiped under his nose.

Leeha eagerly complimented the NPC, because there was something else he wanted to ask.

“By the way, Zeke-nim.”

“Hmm?”

“By any chance with the barrel…”

It was possible to make a pistol. To be precise, it was not to make, but transform an existing musket into a pistol by modifying it.

If that was the case, are other variations possible?


You wouldn’t change it into a pistol, but would it be possible to strengthen the musket itself?

Leeha had always been curious about that.

“Can you make a groove at regular intervals? In a spiral.”

“You want to dig a groove in the barrel? I-in this narrow hole?”

If one could make a pistol, why couldn’t one make a rifle? The current musket is a gliding type. In other words, it fires a sphere-shaped bullet inside the barrel without a steel-wire.

However, what if one could dig spiral grooves at regular intervals inside the barrel?

‘It would have a fair amount of distance, and the accuracy would be overwhelmingly higher. Perhaps, it is necessary to change the shape of the bullet, but it is important to be able to put the steel-wire first.’

In an era when smooth-bore muskets were getting replaced by the steel-wire rifles, the steel-wire muskets existed for a while!

‘It’s not as strong as a modern rifle, but it’s incomparably stronger than a smoothbore musket!’

Zeke took the needle gun again, held it, and looked inside. It had a wider hem than a modern gun, but it was still too narrow. But digging a spiral groove at regular intervals into it….

“Cough, it’s going to be pretty tough.”

“Can’t you do it?”

“It’s possible to dig in it appropriately. But that is not what you want. If there’s a difference in the gap while entering the interior-.”

“Oh! Then it’s not possible!”

In that case, bullets won’t fly out straight. The spiral grooves had to be dug all the way up to the end while maintaining a certain interval.

In a way, steel-wire required more delicate and precise work than jewelry crafting.

The reason why steel-wire technology had not yet developed even when the method of handling gunpowder was so advanced was because the spiral grooves required higher technology than expected.

“That’s what I meant. I guess it’s possible with this small one, but it would be hard to work on a long musket.”

He didn’t know if there was an electric drill, so it was impossible to make it perfectly. Even in modern times, in the first place, a frame with the steel-wire was made and manufactured using a press.

Although it was said that Zeke was a skilled blacksmith, he was a craftsman who made spears and armors, but it was difficult for him to make a delicate steel-wire work.


“Isn’t there any way?”

Leeha looked at Zeke with his most pitiful expression. Zeke scratched the back of his head and shook his head.

“It might be possible for dwarves.”

“Dwarves!”

In addition to the five races that the user can select, there were several races in Middle Earth. The most famous ones were dwarves and dark elves.

They were not monsters, but rather NPC races who lived in a certain society and were closely related to specific quests.

It was also a race that Leeha, who only wandered in the Fibiel Kingdom, had never met before.

“I-I don’t exactly know what you meant. But dwarves are a race that makes magic weapons. We humans, no, to be precise, their skills are far superior to mine. I’m guessing that they should not have any problem digging grooves like that.”

“That would be enough! Thank you!”

“I’m glad it was helpful. See you next time!”

Leeha waved his hand toward Zeke and headed out of the capital.

‘The place where dwarves located had already been revealed. Adamantine Mountains!’

However, it was different from the Sentinel Mountains, which located at the center of the continent. A mountain range stretching from north to south from the western end of the continent.

‘In other words, it’s outside of Fibiel’s borders…I must go through the Minis Kingdom or the Shazrashian Federation.’

Leeha’s steps were quick.

Dwarves and steel-wire musket. Those two keywords kept running through his head.

He couldn’t go without any preparation or weapons.

The reason why Leeha went out of the capital was not to meet the Dwarves. His purpose was to test the pistol.

“The weight is just right. It has good balance.”

It was indeed made by the blacksmith Zeke! Leeha carefully filled the Needle Gun with gunpowder and started reloading.


‘Because the barrel is short, it’s easy to load. It takes very little time to shake off the gunpowder and load the ammunition.’

It was his first pistol reload, but it only took 10 seconds.

Wouldn’t it be faster if he got familiar with it? Leeha raised the pistol with a pounding heart. One hand was enough to control it.

‘There is no gauge because I cut the barrel. I have no choice but to properly aim.’

It would be hard to aim for the time being.

What Leeha aimed for was the leaves 50m’s away. After holding his breath, he pulled the trigger.

Bang-!

“Oh!”

It had been a long time since he shot with one hand. He was taken aback by the strange sensation which he had not felt in a long time, but he soon came back to his senses.

‘This should be enough as the effective range of modern pistols is 50m. In terms of maximum range, it could go further than that.’

Leeha approached the leaf he was aiming for. There was no bullet hole in the leaf, branch, or trunk.

“Huh? ”

It didn’t go in the direction he pointed at all?

‘The range is proportional to the length of the barrel but…Compared to a musket, it was shortened by /5, so it was expected that its range would be reduced.’

But he couldn’t hit at 50m? Leeha tilted his head and went back to reload.

This time, he shot 5m closer!

“This too?”

He approached 5m again.

Click, bang-!

“Hey-.”

He didn’t hit at 40m either. He tried to increase the accuracy by holding it with both hands, but it didn’t work.

If it was 40m, it was the shooting range of the musket when the combat assistance system was turned on.

Even if he turned the combat assistance system on, it didn’t seem possible to hit the target at 40m distance using a pistol.

Leeha barely suppressed his frustration and reloaded, and approached another 5m.

He pulled the trigger at 35, but it failed.

He approached another 5m again. He pulled the trigger at 30m.

‘Please!!!’

Bang-! After the gunshot rang, Leeha looked at the undamaged tree and poured out all kinds of curses.

“What is this! What trick did Zeke do? Why can’t I hit?”

He was not able to hit it at 30m? What’s the point of getting closer! It was just a hammer that made a loud noise!

‘Damn it! Damn it!’

Leeha finished reloading and approached again. It was now only 25m.

It was a distance that could be narrowed down in an instant when a melee user used an instantaneous acceleration skill.

If it doesn’t hit again this time, the purpose of the gun would disappear.

Leeha stood with his body turned to the side, and the moment he raised his hand the sound of flintlock getting shot rang again, bang-! Finally, the leaf fell.

‘The effective range is 25m.

The joy of finding the pistol was momentary, and Leeha did not know whether he should laugh or ?

He felt like he had made the discovery of the century, only to suddenly feel like nothing was going right.

Leeha fiddled with the Needle Gun with a gloomy expression. After reloading and firing a few more shots, he suddenly realized.

Why was he disappointed?

‘You idiot! This gun is not your primary weapon! After all, a pistol is a secondary weapon, right? Right! There’s no need to shoot from 100m with this!’

His thoughts were locked because he could only use this one item.

From now on, he had to travel through Middle Earth with only a 25m range.

‘Idiot! Stupid! That’s absurd! If I could hit a target at 100m with this, then I would be able to hit 200m with a musket! With a new musket!’

And what was the weakness of using a musket? Even Rising Sun’s Tikal knew.

Close combat!

The musket’s length was too long, which needed both arms to aim, making it difficult to deal with approaching enemies.

It was difficult to aim as well as reload.

‘But if it’s a pistol”…

When enemies approached, he could put away his musket and pull out his pistol.

It could be wielded with one hand and its muzzle could be easily aimed at an enemy.

‘In other words, weakness in close combat would be gone.’

Leeha looked at the needle gun in his right hand. The pistol was one-handed. When the enemy approached, would he only use one hand?

He could use both. What if he wore the pistols around his waist? Right, it would be hard to aim because it has no gauge. In that case, he could put the grapeshot in it.’

Grapeshot bullets pouring out like thunder from two pistols. Even if he roughly estimated, 40 bullets would pour out in one shot. In other words, it’s like building a fire net.

‘If I build a fire net. I wouldn’t be able to aim, but the amount of gunpowder would stay the same, and its destructive power at a short distance would not fall short behind the musket!’

Will it work on a heavy-armored warrior? Those warriors won’t be able to survive if they are shot in an exposed area or in the head.

People who think that a musket’s weakness is close combat would approach carelessly…

“I can send them straight to hell.”

Leeha got goosebumps while imagining his own battle scenes. If he had known about this earlier, his fight with Rising Sun might have changed a bit.

When he first caught the Roadrunner, he wouldn’t have been attacked so easily by Jaco and Tikal.

Also, he would have immediately known how Kidd cleared Browless’s test.

He would have used the same method Leeha thought of. To build a fire by loading several pistols with multiple rounds.

‘Two would not be enough but four . If he made four pistols and loaded them with grapeshot bullets!’

Reloading took time.

However, if one had preloaded the pistols, it was possible. If you fire 80 grapeshot bullets at random towards the 13 falling leaves in 3 to 4 seconds, although there would be some errors, the fire net would cover those errors, and the leaves would turn into honeycomb in an instant.

As soon as he got it…

Genius? Or someone knowledgeable about guns? The idea of remodeling an item itself was not common.

“No, wait.”

Leeha suddenly wondered how Kidd would fight.

Right, he understood carrying a pistol. But he had no musket, right?

Leeha had a mid to long-range musket and short-range pistol to switch out, but what about Kidd? He had no musket!

“Could he fight with a pistol that has an effective range of only 25m? Is he really a musketeer?”

Can you call him a musketeer? What kind of battle does he do?

“Leeha-ssi!!!!”

“Huh?”

As Leeha imagined how Kidd battled, he heard a voice calling out from the gate of the capital, aelstock.

The voice was familiar.

“Shin Nara-nim?!”

A woman in shining silver armor. Shin Nara ran toward Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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She wasn’t even wearing her helmet today, and her equipment was also different from the last time.

Most importantly, her sword flashed in a blue light that made him shiver.

“When did you come back to the capital! If you had come, you should have let me know!”

“Ah, yes, haha. Wait a minute, my equipment…”

“Equipment? Did you change equipment? I just realized, is your musket gone? Did it run out of durability while fighting against the Rising Sun?”

“What?”

“I saw the Rising Sun battle too! That was no joke. It was covered in ‘Today in Middle Earth’ and was in the spotlight for two days! Have you seen it as well, Leeha-ssi?”

“I-is that so? Haha. I am not able to watch TV these days because I’m always on Middle Earth.”

Shin Nara looked at Leeha with sparkling eyes.

It had been a while since they saw each other so Leeha was a bit embarrassed by how welcoming Shin Nara was.

‘This is what it’s like to be alive…. She’s really healthy and pretty.’

Her skin, hair, and eyes were shining. How about her body that was trained in fencing. After Leeha looked at Shin Nara for a moment, she said excitedly.

“I couldn’t even imagine getting them to one place and catching them! No, the courage to attack them alone was great. Also I-……”

“What? What are you talking about?”

Shin Nara stopped.

Looking at her as if frozen, Leeha tilted his head. What did she do?

It wasn’t until her face began to heat up that she managed to speak again.


“Protected! I protected you-? Ahh!”

“What? T-that’s right. Nara-ssi protected me. Thank you for that.”

Was she talking about the time when he hunted roadrunners?

Leeha bowed his head toward Nara. Shin Nara Twisted her body.

“I should be the one thanking you. Thank you for trying to defend me. More importantly…”

She shyly raised her sword.

Even those who didn’t know anything about swords would understand.

“The seal…?”

“Yes. It’s released. Ehehe. It is now a complete magic sword.”

“Congratulations!”

“It’s all thanks to Leeha-ssi.”

She got excited and kicked a stone. Her figure looked cuter than ever.

‘It’s now a magic sword. Rankers are definitely different. Does it mean that she’s as strong as a named NPC if not stronger?’

The assault captain in the second Human-Demon war, one-armed Lepanto. Shin Nara would at least be stronger than that NPC.

“Leeha-ssi.”

“What?”

“Do you have a guild?”

“There’s the guild I made while fighting Rising Sun-”

“Are you going to maintain that guild?”

“No. I have no intention of doing that.”


He didn’t want to become a guild master. Being a leader always required sacrifice. The role of a leader is to get cursed at regardless of whether he’s doing well or not. It was enough for Leeha to be able to earn money.

Nara’s eyes glistened as she did not know Leeha had such thoughts.

“Then would you like to join the Sacred Knights?”

“Eh? What? Where?”

“The Sacred Knights! It seems Leeha-ssi has high intimacy with the Sacred Knights and you should be able to join if you could complete a few quests. I will recommend you!”

‘What? What was she talking about?’ Leeha’s eyes widened.

The Capital’s Defense Knights, does she want me to join the strongest knights in the Fibiel Kingdom?

“The fact that I have a high -”

“Ah, t-t-that- that’s because I belong to the Sacred Knights! I was able to see it!”

Shin Nara covered her mouth and quickly waved her hand as if it was hot.

‘She is able to see it, but why did she say she saw mine?’

Leeha thought about it for a while, but he couldn’t figure it out.

“N-no. Thanks for the suggestion…but I don’t have any plans of joining a guild yet.”

“Really?”

“Yes. I still have a lot of work to do.”

He had no intention to waste time socializing. He had to learn how to use the pistol and get used to it, before actually trying to use it for hunting.

‘I have to get stronger. Because Kidd didn’t say everything for nothing.’

Leeha glanced at the pistol he held in his hand, Nara also looked at his hand.

“That weapon…”

“Ah, this is a new one. Because my musket couldn’t be used.”


“Kidd?”

“What?”

The figure of the woman who had just blushed and twisted her body disappeared.

Nara held up her sword, whose seal was unsealed, and looked around.

“Did Kidd give it to you? I’ve never seen anyone other than him use a musket like that before!”

“No, I made it. The man named Kidd gave me a hint, but…”

“Hint? Have you met Kidd?”

“What? Ah, yes. At the academy-”

“Where?! Where is he!?”

Nara came so close that her nose touched Leeha’s nose.

Leeha got flustered and stepped back, he didn’t know that he would fall over.

“He’s not here anymore. I don’t know where he is either.”

“Academy? You mean he was at the Musket Academy?”

“Yes.”

“Tsk, he ran away again.”

As Nara was disappointed, Leeha got curious.

It was funny that when he saw Kidd for the first time Leeha thought that they were in a relationship.

‘Rather, it’s like she’s disappointed that she was not able to kill him, right?’

Shin Nara was a ranker. Kidd was not a ranker. Why was she disappointed?

“May I ask why you’re looking for Kidd?”

“What? Ah, that… It’s nothing. It’s because I wanted to get revenge.”

“Revenge? What do you mean by revenge?”

“…”

Nara muttered. However, Leeha got even more interested. Was it difficult to say? What the hell did Kidd do, that Shin Nara was looking for him for revenge?

“I lost to him. Before.”

“What? What do you mean lose? Rock, Paper, scissors?”

“No.”

Power rushed into Nara’s hand that was holding a sword.

“We had a 1v1 match, but I lost.”

“Nara-ssi lost? To Kidd? The 1v1 you’re talking about is the 1v1 I am thinking, right?”

Nara nodded. And she bit her lips lightly.

Thinking that even her angry expression looked cute, Leeha opened his mouth again.

“It’s a long time ago… right? When you were low-leveled? That should be it. There was a time when I got beat up by a rabbit as well.”

Leeha laughed while recalling the time when he was level 1 to comfort Nara. However, even after hearing Leeha’s story, Nara did not laugh.

“No. I was already a ranker at that time. It wasn’t even that long ago.”

“Unbelievable- Really?”

“Do you know how Kidd got the nickname ‘Sleeping’ Kidd?”

“N-No.”

“He loves to sleep. So much that he even sleeps in Middle Earth.”

“You can sleep in Middle Earth?”

No, even if one could sleep, does one have to sleep in here? One could experience it 5 times lower than in real-time, so one could say it’s efficient….

‘Doesn’t he get tired of sleeping too much? My conversation with him before was a bit strange.’

Just when Leeha thought Kidd was a strange person, Nara again.

“I think Rising Sun went after Kidd when he got a new item.”

“Rising Sun… They really were everywhere.”

“Yes. At that time 30 Rising Sun members went to see Kidd, who was sleeping on his stomach at a pub in a village. Users were worried about PK happening in the village.”

“If it’s a village, it’s understandable. Those guys…”

Because it happened to Leeha as well. It must have been a very desirable item.

“So what happened? Did they target sleeping Kidd?”

“Yes. I only heard of it. They said it was so quick that no one was able to take a video.”

“Oh, how did it go?”

“Thirty people suddenly died. Kidd laid on the table and he did not raise his upper body. The only thing that moved was his arms which were under the table.”

“What?”

“After a while, he got up with a drowsy yawn, and asked ‘What are all these?’”

“T-That… He killed 30 people while asleep?”

“He got a nickname after that.

‘Sleeping’ Kidd. No one could avoid his gun, which could aim at its target even while he’s asleep.”

While sleeping, he killed 30 people and they disappeared.

Kidd’s words suddenly came into Leeha’s mind. He might become a 『 Rival 』 to such a person.

“H-How is it even possible? No, that’s absurd. I can’t believe it. It’s weird that Nara-ssi said she got beaten, also he fought while sleeping-”

“It’s true. After hearing that, I went looking for Kidd.”

“What?”

She went to him to fight, and Shin Nara lost?

Her eyes lit up when she recalled the past. Shin Nara no longer looked like a cute, shy girl. She emanated a spirit of a lioness with her heart blazing.

“Even so, no, the level difference would have been extreme-”

“You know that level is not everything in Middle Earth, right? Why would an unfriendly game like Middle Earth only reveal the level ranking?”

“Why is that?”

“They are throwing… preys to get caught. It’s like releasing information to 『 Outsiders 』, strong people who are not rankers.”

“What?”

“There are a lot of those in Middle Earth, Leeha-ssi. Those who are strong regardless of level. No, those who are overwhelmingly stronger than what their level is. Leeha-ssi knows it as well, right?”

“Ah…”

Only then did Leeha understand what Nara was trying to say.

In Middle Earth, level wasn’t everything.

Level can be used as a criterion for receiving quests or other things, but becoming stronger didn’t necessarily mean raising one’s level.

‘Stats…!’

Stat points. Only 5 points were given per level.

The higher the level, the harder it was to level up, so getting stat points is very important.

‘One can get stats from achievements or items. In other words, being strong regardless of level-‘

It meant obtaining more achievements than anyone else.

Even Leeha’s stats were not directly proportional to his level. Someone who has significantly higher stats than their level?

He didn’t even have to look far to find it. Leeha himself is one of the people who could be called an 『 Outsider 』.

“Didn’t you know that killing a ranker would get you an achievement? If you kill a ranker in the top 100, you will receive a corresponding achievement.”

“Really?”

“That’s why Middle Earth released the top 100 level rankings. To induce 『 Outsiders 』 to prey on the rankers. If you could hunt them, their level will go down, so rankers need to be vigilant.”

Leeha was once again horrified by the management of Middle Earth.

It was a place that induced endless competition! Even a little carelessness or weakness would cause one to fall off a cliff.

(To be continued…)
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‘On the other hand, because they induce such competition… Resource consumption will inevitably accelerate.’

This is the reason why rankers can’t immediately sell the items they recently got for cash. If they let their guard down it would be the last item they acquire.

The gold they earned must be reinvested into themselves in order to survive the competitive society of Middle Earth.

‘In other words, it’s about maintaining the value of gold in Middle Earth while at the same time encouraging competition. These guys really-’

Chills! The degree of difficulty was crazy! Thanks to this system, only the hardcore gamers would be able to make a name for themselves and get respected in Middle Earth.

It was proof that one had survived in this harsh world.

“Kidd is also one of the representatives of . It’s literally walking around without a guild. There are also 『 Outsiders 』 that hunt rankers together with guilds.”

“Wow…”

When he was struggling against the Rising Sun on earth, something like that was happening in heaven.

“So Nara-ssi got killed by Kidd?”

“Not exactly killed, but that’s right. I’ve also told the story to the Sacred Knights for them to notify me immediately when they find Kidd, but how did he get into the capital?”

Nara chewed on her lips and looked at Leeha with a pained expression.

“I-I’m sorry. Did I say something too strange? I did not come here to talk about this.”

“It’s okay, I didn’t know about it……. Rather, I should be grateful to you for telling me.”

“Hehehe, I love your heart for thinking that way.”

“What?”

“No, t-that-.”

Shin Nara twisted her body again. Leeha suddenly thought that Nara was a pretty innocent woman.


“Leeha-ssi as well! Leeha-ssi is also highly likely to be classified as one of the 『 Outsiders 』 now! I’m sure you will receive a lot of guild offers. At that time, there’s also the Byulcho guild, so please think carefully… That’s what I wanted to say.”

“Sacred Knight is among them, right?”

“Yes. I like that the best.”

“Why would Nara-ssi like that?”

When Leeha tilted his head and asked, Nara did not say anything.

With only her eyes rolling, she hit Leeha’s chest with her cat’s hand.

“I don’t know!”

‘Kuook, it hurts!’

Nara turned around without seeing Leeha holding his chest.

“I have to go now, so next time, be sure to whisper, Leeha-ssi!”

“Cough, yes! Take care!”

Nara, who had already run far away, waved at Leeha.

Leeha opened his character window to check how much HP he lost Shin Nara’s hit. A ranker was a ranker.

‘And Kidd defeated Shin Nara. I’m still far away.’

In fact, he was excited about winning against Rising Sun.

It was an achievement that no one in Middle Earth could achieve, and in fact, it was such a big event that it caused the Internet to be in chaos.

However, as Kijung said, most people who could do it, did not, because it was bothersome.

It was not the time to be arrogant. It was not the time to be satisfied.

‘I’m still far away.’

Leeha grabbed his gun.


He only had 5 gold left. Without a musket, he had to hunt with the Needle Gun for a while.

—

“I will not give up… don’t I have to see it through till the end?”

“Ahaha, end? Why am I surprised to hear that from your mouth? I was even willing to negotiate.”

Ram Hwayeon slammed the cup she held on the desk and continued.

“But it was you who came out like that in the beginning. Did you forget? I still remember dying in Tiwi Canyon.”

“Fuck. It’s because of your little sister. And would it have been better to get hit by a chunk of ice and explode to death? What would you have done to us if you didn’t die?”

If you get hit, you have to pay it back. The person sitting opposite Ram Hwayeon, Hyein the Guild Master of Byulcho guild, smiled bitterly.

“This bastard…don’t be so cowardly-”

“Stop.”

As Hwayeon’s body twitched, the ninja’s hand behind Hyein gleamed for a moment.

He several shurikens in his hand in an instant.

“Hands down.”

And before Sasuke could move, another voice was heard.

“…Get rid of that block of ice.”

Sasuke opened his mouth and loosened the strength of the hand that held the shuriken. The person who opened her mouth was Hwajung who stood behind Hwayeon.

Shining ice floated in her hand.

Even after seeing Sasuke and Hwajung, the guild masters of each guild, Hwayeon, and Hyein, did not say anything.

Because both of them wanted to crush the face of the person sitting in front of them. But they do that.

“Sasuke, stay back.”


“Hwajung, endure. I will give you the chance later.”

The meeting place of the two guilds Aelstock.

If they attack recklessly here, they would turn the Sacred Knights into their enemy. That had to be avoided.

“Anyway, this bastard, that bastard, let’s not do it. Ram Hwayeon-ssi. It’s not good to say that in a meeting between guild masters. Coming out like that will only make my guild members angry.”

“Right. I shouldn’t have called you ‘this bastard’. I should have called you a son of a bitch, because your actions are not that of a human.”

“These bitch…”

As Hwayeon smiled, swear words came out of Hyein’s mouth this time. It was an impossible meeting, to begin with.

However, even from the standpoint of both guilds, a miraculous place appeared, where they could not take any action, and the result was already apparent.

“Why don’t we stop wasting time, and just win by bidding? Neatly. What would be cleaner than that?”

“I think I said it before, you can’t win cleanly when the money you use is dirty.”

“I think I also gave an answer last time. I’m only doing business.”

struggle for rights where there was no good and evil. Ram Hwayeon did not back down.

Hyein tapped his finger at the same conversation they had before and opened his mouth.

“Bid. Alright, bidding it is, but will you be able to survive it?”

“What?”

“Do you think we will stand still if you come at us like that?”

Hyein was the one who spoke but he was also the one that needed to be prepared.

What would be left if they stood still? And what would be the result?.

“…Guild war?”

“If you don’t want to give up, we have no choice but to do the same. I am not afraid of Fei Wu at all. Did you know that there are no rankers in Korea?”

“Are you saying you will recruit rankers? If you had the money for that-”

“Not right now. However, after getting Dale Castle, we can sign a contract based on the distribution of profit. Give them something similar to stock options! If we give the rankers two months’ worth of profits and we get 10 months’ worth of profit, it won’t hurt either of us!”

Hyein’s teeth shone in the dark.

It wasn’t for intimidation. It was time for the Byulcho guild, who could no longer retreat, to take action.

If they retreat here, the ‘donation’ they poured into Dale castle would not be recovered. Because it would all become zero.

All or nothing, the winner takes it all. Hyein took a deep breath.

“We will never give up, Ram Hwayeon.”

Hearing Hyein’s determination, Hwayeon trembled.

There was a reason why she trembled when she saw the man bet his life.

Fear? No.

“Bring it on, byeolcho. I will make red flowers bloom from your body. Bring all of the Dragon Knights and Seomgwang with you.”

It was joy that dominated her body.

The best way to speed up one’s business is to sweep the ones that are getting in the way. Bad debt and restructuring are necessary for companies.

First of all, Ram Hwayeon welcomed it, as it was an opportunity to sweep away the ticks in one stroke, legally and with certainty.

It would have been better to avoid expensive fights until the final bid, but she was not the type to avoid any challenge.

Hyein looked at Hwayeon’s confident smile for a long time. Regardless of threats or not, his opponent did not cover their hand even though all their cards were drawn.

Now all the stakes have been staked.

“Good luck.”

Hyein grabbed his wand and tapped. Sasuke and Hyein disappeared at the same time.

“I should’ve killed him.”

Hwajung calmly said and the chunk of ice disappeared.

“No, hwajeong. You held it in well. There will be many more opportunities to kill in the future.”

“Ha Leeha.”

“Yes. We have to hurry now. It’s not just Ha Leeha.”

Hwayeon took the paper out of her arms. e looked carefully at the page full of people’s names.

“We are going to gather 『 Outsiders 』.”

“Not rankers?”

When Hwajung tilted her head, Hwayeon smiled and answered.

“Rankers are expensive.”

People who were at a lower level than rankers, but as strong as them.

It was Hwayeon’s calculation that outsiders would not be able to reject the relatively low cost if they were given the opportunity to fight against rankers.

‘In addition, the enemy said that they would be bringing in rankers, so there’s no better prey than this. They are wild dogs that prefer fighting over money… haha.’

The articles about Leeha and Rising Sun, which had been floating around the internet since that day, disappeared in an instant.

There was only one topic that overflowed after filling out the vacancy.

The war over the first commercial monopoly in Middle Earth’s history.

—

Less than 24 hours before the guild war between Byulcho Alliance led by Hyein and Hwahong (Red Flower) led by Ram Hwayeon.

“Kuwaat-!”

The muscles of the labor-trained monster swelled like an explosion. The pickaxe held by the chain-orc worker slammed down.

“Ugh!”

Leeha managed to avoid the pickaxe.

Boom-!

The pebbles popped up.

The monster did not allow distance.

How long had it been since he had started fighting at close range?

‘Haha, isn’t this quite fun?’ The orc swung its pickaxe as soon as a smile appeared in Leeha’s mouth.

Boom- The sound was realistic but Leeha already crouched down.

“High.”

As the pickaxe passed over his head, he straightened his knees as much as he could and jumped! As he approached the orc’s face, Leeha raised his hand.

In his hand, an object with a length of 40 cm was held.

“Chwit?”

“Bye.”

When he pulled his index finger, the muzzle was positioned under the orc’s chin.

Bang-!

The back of the orc’s head exploded with a light gunshot.

“Chwit-! Human intruder-!”

“Chwiit, chwiit!”

When the gunshot rang out, it attracted the aggro of other orcs.

Three orcs approached. One warrior and two workers. In the past, he would have tried to run away first, but that was not the case for Leeha right now.

‘Delicate Hand Movement.’

『 Intermediate Delicate Hand Movement (Lv. 6) 』

Description: A skilled musketeer can always put the right amount of gunpowder. Always keeps his hands precise.

Effect: Fixed reload time of 25 seconds for 460 seconds. (Pistol fixed at 7 seconds.)

Mana: 200

Cooldown: 6 hours

In the case of pistols, the reload time was only 7 seconds.

Even before the orcs approached, Leeha’s needle gun pistol was already reloaded.

‘After avoiding the enemy’s attack, and as close as possible-’

Swiiik-!

The chain-orc warrior’s spear cut through the air, but it did not touch Leeha’s body.

Leeha sprinted in order to match the movement of the orc warrior’s greatsword.

“C-Chwii?”

“Slow.”

Bang-!

There was a hole in the orc warrior’s forehead. The workers rushed to wield their pickaxes, but they couldn’t reach Leeha .

(To be continued…)
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With only a few evasive movements and two gunshots, the situation was easily settled.

“I have the gist of how to fight, but…”

Leeha looked at the orc’s corpse and tilted his head.

Chain-Orc workers were level 70 monsters. And orc warriors were in the early 80s.

For Leeha who had already crossed level 90, it meant that they were monsters that were lower leveled than Leeha from the beginning. That was the reason why they were easy to catch.

‘As expected, it’s hard to use it as a main weapon. I don’t know if it would be harder if I had two pistols.’

Leeha looked at the Needle Gun. It was named 『 Normal Needle Gun – Pistol 』 even without using the naming skill.

Of course, this meant that someone had already given a name to this type of item.

‘If I fight with two pistols, my fighting power would definitely be doubled. But the risk is too high.’

In order to level up quickly, wouldn’t he have to go to a hunting ground higher than his level?

‘A more powerful place here would be the fighting-orc village. However, there are a lot of people there. It is hard to find a camping spot, and I wouldn’t be able to find a party with a pistol. And most importantly? …There are trolls. I don’t think it would be easy to test this the Sentinel Mountain.’

Fighting with two pistols against a monster that could regenerate. No matter how he thought about it, the risk was too huge.

There were too many people in the fighting-orc village. Most importantly, Leeha did not want to show the pistol to the general players.

Bombs and claymores were effective against Rising Sun because they had never experienced those types of items before. When was the last time they experienced an explosive that was installed in the form of a booby trap?

‘It’s the same with the pistol. If a video of using a pistol in close combat spreads again…’

Besides, he was famous in his own right. He had to think that someone might take a video and post it on the internet.

The pistol was made to offset his weakness in close combat, but if it turned out that they knew about such a weapon, Leeha would not be able to get the timing of using it as a ‘last blow’.

‘In other words, I have to use a musket to hunt for the time being, in order to hide the fact about the pistol.’


Right, he felt comfortable with that idea. That would be possible if he could only solve one problem.

“I’m a complete beggar… damn it.”

He had a test battle in the chain-orc village, but his level did not change.

He had disposed of the items he got from the Rising Sun members, and used that money to upgrade the Needle Gun, he also sold all the loot he had obtained from hunting orcs. His remaining gold was.

“6 gold and 17 silver. Huhuhuhu. With this money, I would not be able to buy a decent musket.”

If he warped back to the capital using warp, he would only have 5 gold, and if he wanted to buy a musket, he had to buy something that was lower-leveled than the Needle Gun.

‘I have felt it for a long time, but the more I play Middle Earth, the poorer I feel.’

There was nothing left for the victor who destroyed a vicious guild that reaped huge profits on a weekly basis. He even had to downgrade his weapon.

“I am not a philanthropist. Ah, isn’t it the time for the distribution period of compensation for the damages to end?”

Leeha checked Middle Earth’s time.

The gold confiscated from Rising Sun would be returned to the victims, but the period was not indefinite.

It was impossible to deposit gold in a bank account.

‘It would be a week in Middle Earth’s time… today.’

How much gold was left? How many victims took it?

Leeha hoped that some of it would be returned to him, just enough that he could buy a musket or ‘Spitfire’.

‘It’s not a bad thing to get 18 gold for disbanding Rising Sun. Please, please!’

Without knowing where and what was going on, Leeha was absorbed in thoughts of gold.

“Some of them might have already received it…” —

“Hwahong completely ignored our proposal.”

Hyein shook and lowered his head. At his calm and polite tone, the gathered members of Byulcho became indignant.


“Those bitches! They ignored our guild master?”

“Wow, they must be really blinded by money. That’s why you shouldn’t trust those chinks.”

“It’s not about dying together, it’s about living together… Ha, what a bitch.”

Sasuke was the only one at the meeting

Hyein never offered a way of coexistence nor any polite suggestions he With a little thought he could figure out. Because there was no way of coexistence in the first place.

“T-then, what will our investments be like, Guild Master?”

“Right! How much have we put far?”

“20,000? 21,000 gold?”

The guild members started chattering. Hyein, who listened to them, came forward and organized things.

“Of three guilds, our guild alone has invested 21,850 gold ‘donations’ toward Dale Castle.”

Woooah…….

It was about 2.6 billion Korean Won. The donations of Dragon Knights and Seomgwang guild were not even included.

Byulcho put in the most, but the remaining two guilds did not invest a small amount either.

How rich was the Hwahong Guild or Ram Hwayeon, that they could surpass the combined capital of the three guilds?

“I-is that irretrievable?”

“There’s no other way for Hwahong to come out like that. Most importantly, we invested in Dale Castle in the name of ‘donation’. We can’t ask for it back.”

Hyein spoke calmly, but from the listener’s point of view, they would not be able to maintain a calm attitude.

“No way! No way!! I invested all my savings!”

“M-me too, I put all my salary in there!”

“I invested my marriage fund toward Dale Castle. The guaranteed profit within a year was 30%!”


Byulcho guild members became loud and noisy.

Kijung and Tale frowned as they looked at the nearby guild members.

“It is a matter of money after all.”

It couldn’t be helped. Tale and Kijung were the founding members of Byulcho, but… most of the people here were powers that Hyein had drawn to raise money for investment in Dale Castle’s commercial monopoly.

However, those who were united by profit did not have bad unity or poor attitude.

Rather, they were closer to those who played the game more thoroughly and persistently than ordinary players in order to protect their money.

“That’s why I’m telling you.”

Bang-!

Hyein, who was on the podium, slammed his hand heavily. When the guild members quieted down, Hyein opened his mouth again.

“There’s no other way than a guild war. I have already contacted the guild masters of Dragon Knights and Seomgwang guild. Everyone in the alliance agreed to not give up our interest and money.”

“G-Guild War-!”

“Oh my god! Hwahong- Ram Hwayeon, does that mean Ram Hwajung and Fei Wu would be there?”

“If you don’t like it, you can leave! However, keep in mind that the existing investment is non-refundable! Didn’t we all invest in it! For the potential return. If you follow the risk and go beyond it, what awaits you is ‘Dale Castle’ which is comparable to El Dorado, the City of Gold!”

Even if only one person got out, everything collapse like a sandcastle, that is the of the organization. Hyein quickly spoke before such a person appeared.

“We will not lose! We will gather those who could stand up to Ram Hwajung and Fei Wu! For example, Shin Nara!”

Hearing the name Shin Nara, the eyes of the guild members widened.

Shin Nara? Ranked 6? She was already a member of the Sacred Knights, but if she joined as a mercenary, she would be of great strength.

“Or ranked 8, Faust!”

“F-Faust?”

“That crazy necromancer?”

“But there are rumors that a lot of money would be needed because of the corpses! If we could meet his conditions, he might help…”

The bod of the guild members talking noisily shuddered. Hyein was definitely the master of the guild.

brought out another name that would completely the guild members.

“There’s another one. I plan to reach out to the top Korean ranker as well.”

“If it’s the top-ranked Korean…”

Gulp.

The commotion subsided in an instant.

Second in the Rankings, ‘So easy’ Lee Jiwon, one of the most famous players in Middle Earth. 2nd in the world level ranking. The highest-ranking in Asia and Korean ranking.

Lee Jiwon was so popular to the extent that Middle Earth players who did not know that Korea was a country knew about Lee Jiwon’s existence.

“Of course, that’s the plan! We have to hear from them first and meet their conditions, but we should be able to do it!”

It had not been confirmed yet. They may agree or not.

However, no guild members listened to Hyein’s last words, which should have been the most important.

In other words, Hyein cleverly raised the morale of the guild members and dug a hole in which he could escape.

That was the reason why Tale and Kijung couldn’t be happy at all even after hearing his words.

It was reasonable that they had no reason to get involved in this war.

“Do you think they will come?”

“Lee Jiwon is single-mindedly hunting to catch up with the No. 1 ranking.

He wouldn’t come. No matter how much money we give him…. If we’re talking about money anyway, he would have earned enough to play and eat for the rest of his life.”

“I agree. He is purely seeking strength. There’s no reason for him to step up in this war.”

Tale nodded his head in agreement with Kijung’s opinion.

“Bring everyone who can help us! Although we can’t give them monetary compensation, we can give them the joy of winning against Hwahong, and the joy of being with the strongest players in Middle Earth!”—!!!

Byulcho guild members cheered towards Hyein.

It was also true that it was intended to inspire morale. Since the investment could not be refunded, it was right to move in advance.

However, the effect that Hyein was looking for came later.

“G-good. I’ll have to call my friend.”

“Me too! This is amazing! We could even see Lee Jiwon’s face!? I should ask my friend to join our guild!”

He sold one ranker’s name to gather a hundred followers.

‘Haha, Just you wait, Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung. This time…’

A sinister smile hung on Hyein’s face. Looking at it, Sasuke was barely able to swallow his dry saliva.

“Sasuke.”

“Yes, master.”

“Call Kay separately.”

“I understand.”

“Yes, Hyein hyung.”

“Ah, Kay. Are you busy with leveling these days?”

“No, it’s just… It’s the same.”

In the safe house where the guild members disbanded. That place was where Hyein and Sasuke met Kijung.

(To be continued…)
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The guild war was declared. About 12 hours later in real-time.

In other words, after three days of Middle Earth time, the war between Hwahong and Byulcho would start.

“Kay. Wasn’t there someone you called hyung last time?”

“Who? Ah, Leeha hyung?”

“Yes. Ha Leeha-nim. Can you make him join our guild?”

“Eh? Leeha hyung?”

Hyein’s suggestion was unexpected.

A lot of investors came, but Byulcho was a fairly solid guild. It was because the level limit was pretty high.

Did he suggest that Leeha could join even when he hasn’t reached level 100 yet?

‘Well, his fight with Rising Sun made a great impact.’

Kijung couldn’t keep his mouth shut while he watched the video.

At least he’s not the kind and gentle cousin type. Didn’t he look like Hwapo’s envoy?

“If he joins us, I think he can help us a lot in our war. In fact, I want to talk to him more than the rankers.”

“Amazing… I-isn’t it scarier when Hyein hyung says it like that?”

“Huh, is that so?”

Hyein looked at Kijung with a smile on his eyes that curved like a moon.

It was a proposal that Kijung would not lose on. Also, Kijung wanted to be in the same guild as Leeha.


But Leeha always refused.

“Cough, I actually suggested it to him before. I told him that if I recommend him, he might be able to join the guild.”

“O-okay? So? What did he say?”

“He said he didn’t want to. Well, that was when he was low-level and had no accomplishments…. Maybe it was because Leeha hyung was ashamed of his character at that time.”

“Uh. What do you think of this time?”

Kijung held his chin and glanced at Hyein and Sasuke.

Sasuke opened his mouth.

“We need his strength, Kay. Whether it’s an all-out battle or guerilla tactics, with his attack power, our range of operation would expand. Or we can use a sneak attack and kill Ram Hwayeon.”

A collaboration between the Kuroninja Sasuke and Musketeer Ha Leeha. If the two people who were accustomed to hiding and infiltration got dispatched as special forces, they should be able to subdue the . If that happened, they could end the war by raiding Hwahong, which would have lost its command system.

Sasuke’s suggestion was reasonable at first glance.

“If even Sasuke hyung says that… Well, it is what it is. I’ll talk to him first.”

“Sure. Please!”

“You must get Ha Leeha-nim, Kay! Understand?”

“P-Please don’t put pressure on me. What’s wrong with you today?. Haha. Alright. Leeha hyung is logged out right now, so I will log out and contact him.”

Kijung was flustered by Hyeing and Sasuke approaching suddenly, so he quickly backed away.

He was usually friendly, but his behavior today was very strange.

“Okay. We don’t have much time left, but I’m excited! Please take good care of us in the guild war!”

“Yes, I will follow hyung-nim’s orders. Haha, fighting.”

Kijung laughed, said his goodbye, and logged out. As the shining armor of the tanker disappeared, the light in the room dimmed.

“…Will this be enough, master.”


“How could a bastard like Ha Leeha beat Rising Sun? All the explosions that flashed in the video must have been Hwayeon’s work. In other words, Kay and his bastard of an older hyung are assholes.”

Hyein’s eyes lit up.

“He’s very likely a mole.”

“What would you do if he brought Ha Leeha?”

“If he brings him, then we have to figure out how to use him. You can think about it .”

Hyein stood up and looked at the map where the Byulcho Alliance’s safe house was located and predicted the maneuver routes.

“Then, if he can’t bring him-”

“I hate enemies, but I hate traitors more. Well, it’s a relief in a sense. Having a traitor means that even if we lose in this war, we would have someone to blame, right? Right?”

Hyein smiled brightly. A pure smile that curved like a half moon? It not like that.

Seeing his devilish smile, Sasuke bowed his head.

The mouse had already dug a hole to escape to.

—

“I ate well.”

After eating dinner with his mother, Leeha headed back to the computer.

After the Brass Golem’s shield, Leeha did not have any additional income, but since the income was a lot, he would not have any burden in the future.

His mother’s expression was getting brighter every day, so for Leeha, Middle Earth was a blessing and he was grateful for it.

“Hmm. It’s a little burdensome to go troll hunting right away. Are there any hunting grounds where I could hunt that are below level 100?”

He started looking for hunting grounds.

Trolls were usually level 130 or higher ‘party’ hunting grounds. It’s burdensome for Leeha to challenge it alone with his level right away. He didn’t even have a proper weapon.

While he was level 90, it was burdensome to go level 110 hunting ground, but he was confident that he could overcome it with his control and skills.


However, it was difficult to fill the gap between levels 110 and 130.

“Huh?”

Leeha connected to the internet to search for information and came across unexpected news.

Until this morning, there were still talks about Rising Sun and Leeha.

‘It’s all gone. Besides, this-!’

『 Title: 12 hours until the guild war begins, who will win? 』

『 Title: Hwahong vs Byulcho power analysis.txt 』

『 Title: What is commercial monopoly Is it money 』

『 Title: Crazy bitches talk about Hwahong and Byulcho all day long. 』

Most posts included the words Hwahong and Byulcho.

Leeha also knew it. The guild where Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung belonged to and the guild where Kijung belonged!

‘War? It ended with a guild war…? If it starts tomorrow, then it means that the guild war declaration has already been done!!’

Talk about seeing it through the end! It wasn’t a local war like the Tiwi Canyon Battle. It was a situation where both the guilds put everything on the line.

The guild war between Leeha and Rising Sun just ended, but another war was already heating up the internet.

『 Title: What is commercial monopoly Is it money 』

Is the guild that wins going to be the lord of Dale Castle?

– You would not be the lord of the castle, but you would be entrusted with the authority of the lord. It is virtually a castle town. It is a monopoly in commercial activities, allowing one to control the type and amount of goods distributed.

– Wow. So can you increase the price of potions by 10 times?

– oo It can be said that you would receive all the financial authority for Dale Castle ut, you can’t be reckless. It’s also difficult to pay fees and taxes to the lord and king… Anyway, if you make losses, you would get kicked out.

– Doesn’t that mean the guy who raised the price of potion by 10 times doesn’t have any brain? Would people buy it like that? Think about it.

– If it’s Dae Castle, I have nothing to say. It is the key point of the northwestern border. It is connected to the dungeon, and it’s also close to the border of the Shazrashian Federation, so there are a lot of people.

That’s right. Dale Castle manages 3 dungeons. It has the most number of dungeons in the Fibiel Kingdom. It might have more people than most cities? It’s just a castle, but its financial scale is larger than a city.

A place developed as a city and a place developed as a castle have different uses. From the moment he first heard of it from Kijung, Leeha was suspicious. He thought that it would be better to invest in a city with more people than most.

However, it was chosen by Hyein and Ram Hwayeon, the oldest daughter of Hong Kong’s RamLong Group. Dale Castle was no ordinary castle.

One could earn by adjusting the fees for using the facilities inside the castle, such as repairing equipment or replenishing potions, but the most important part was, it was the place that connects to all dungeons that can be entered at level 60, level 130, and level 170 or higher.

‘Controlling the entrance and exit of the dungeon…’

And others might not know, but Leeha knew. The information for each country is confirmed by the Royal Archives.

The Shazrashian Federation in the northwest was barren land.

Many exchanges between the Fibiel Kingdom and the Shazrashian Federation pass through Dale Castle.

‘Even if they only receive a small toll tax, they will get substantial profits.’

Both guild masters had the same plan to pick and eat the best land, rather than aiming for another city with high income and high taxes to pay.

“While I was fighting Sun, these people were already…”

It was a huge event.

No one was able to disband Rising Sun. However, it was worlds apart from this. It literally meant to have some control and sovereignty in Middle Earth.

‘I still have a long way to go. I need to connect quickly-’

Riiing.

In the midst of his burning enthusiasm, his phone rang. The caller was Kijung.

“Ah, Kijung. How’s the guild war”

– Hmm? Did hyung see it too? I have something to talk to you about, can you connect now?

“Okay. I have work to do, so I will log in. I will go to the capital.”

– Okay. Come quickly, hyung!

After hanging up the short call, Leeha connected to Middle Earth.

After the Rising Sun incident, Kijung praised Leeha so as to support him. Was there anything he wanted to say? Is it related to the guild war?

‘I guess that must be it.’

Leeha was able to guess to some extent.

“Hyung!”

“Oh? Did you change your equipment?”

“There’s a war, so I have to be prepared. I couldn’t change my weapon because I don’t have any money, so I got an armor set instead.”

It looked much stronger than his previous armor.

Leeha suddenly thought of something. What would happen if he fired his weapon, the needle gun pistol, at Kijung?

‘I don’t even know if it would scratch it .’

Come to think of it, Kijung was proud of something even before Leeha fought Rising Sun.

‘He exceeded level 200. Is his item also level 200 or higher?’

The guy who got killed by Agromni Igor and went down by a level to 197 has already surpassed 200. It should be higher now.

“Hyung, did you sell your weapon?”

“Cough, it happened somehow, I am very sad right now.”

“Haha, the one who disbanded the Rising Sun has no money. It’s not like you’re filming a comedy.”

“That’s true.”

“Has the reward distribution finished?”

“No, it should be today in Middle Earth time… I think it’s almost over?”

Middle Earth had a long nighttime. It should have been considered before the end. After talking about this and that, Kijung brought up the main topic to Leeha.

“Hyung.”

“Huh?”

“Would you like to join our guild?”

“Huh? Byulcho? Me?”

“Keup, I told you not to get involved in a guild war. It’s like I’m pulling you in… Hyein, Sasuke and everyone in the guild said they wanted hyung. They acknowledged you after you disbanded Rising Sun.”

“He, hehe, hehehe. Is that so?”

Leeha, who remembered the face of Byulcho’s Guild Master, could not contain his laughter.

Thinking, ‘Now you’re looking at me, you punk!’

Was it childish? He would have helped without batting an eye.

‘I must choose. But…. the enemy is Ram Hwayeon. I have a relationship with Byulcho to some extent, but I hunted in the beginner village with Ram Hwayeon, and she talked to me when I saved her life, but that was before.’

What do they think now? Do Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon remember Leeha?

In addition, the person who tried to bring Leeha into her guild was Ram Hwayeon. In a way, she was the one who tried to ‘join hands’ with Leeha.

He didn’t like it.

Fighting with the women he knew even though they did not have much of a relationship.

“Well. Hmm. Help me hyung. If you get to the 1st group and defeat Hwahong, Hyein will take good care of you. He won’t treat you badly.”

“I guess so. Besides, Kijung will be there as well, so I won’t get neglected, but…”

“You still don’t like it? This time is different from before! The guild master wants hyung! He fully acknowledges your skill. You can come proudly!”

“It’s not that I can’t go because I’m proud- ahh, but how should I say this?.”

“Then what- hmm?”

“Huh? Why?”

While Leeha was confused about how to explain the situation, Kijung suddenly took a vigilant stance.

“Who is it!!”

“K-Kijung!”

Without letting Leeha talk, Kijung’s body exploded and bounced off.

At the corner alley in Aelstock. Sssk-!

A black shadow jumped out of it.

(To be continued…)

Notes:

Hwapo is a Korean cannon. Don’t really know what Hwapo’s envoy means. If any of you could share your wisdom, please enlighten me.
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His body was wrapped in a gray and black cloak, and Leeha and Kijung saw something the moment he moved.

A bright red guild mark, it had a pattern resembling a rose.

“Hwahong-! Stop, you bastard!”

Kijung followed the shadow, with the symbol of the Hwahong Guild.

Boom-!

Dust rose from the spot where Kijung was as he sprinted.

“Kijung, let’s go together!”

It was impossible for Leeha to catch up to users who were level 200 or higher as they ran in earnest.

An untimely chase took place at the capital, aelstock.

“Kkak! W-What?”

“They’re using skills in the capital?”

“Won’t the Sacred Knight’s stop it?”

Although it was not an attack skill, using skills that disturb order was not tolerated.

Even so, Kijung and the shadow he was chasing did not spare their skills! Other users were startled and moved out of the way.

‘Was he following Kijung from the beginning?’

Hwahong guild? No, Ram Hwayeon? Kijung was definitely one of the main powers of the Byulcho guild. Did they do this before the declaration of war took effect?

‘It’s in line with Ram Hwayeon’s personality.’


Didn’t Sun Tzu’s Art of War come from her country? She probably already knew better than anyone how to achieve victory before the war.

Besides, Kijung was one of the main powers, but there was no way that they had only attached people to him.

‘Not only the guild master of the Byulcho, but also all the major powers from Dragon Knights and Seomgwang, must have had people attached to them as well.’

The war had already begun. Leeha admired Hwayeon’s quick action.

“Haa, haa- did you get him, Kijung?”

After running for a while, Leeha arrived at Kijung’s location. Kijung, who had already reached the eastern gateway of the capital, trembled with regret.

“No, wasn’t he too fast? Hyung! Didn’t you see that bastard when you came?”

“Oh? N-No. There was no one behind you when I came.”

“Where did he go? I don’t think he left. He was fast. He was as fast as Sasuke hyung, so I wasn’t able to follow him. Assholes! They tried to kill me in the capital.”

Kijung might be good at combat, but he certainly had little experience in these kinds of schemes.

In Leeha’s eyes, it was all pure tactics.

He wondered if they sent the assassin to kill Kijung in the capital, but just gathering information would have sufficed.

“Did you see? Did you see, hyung? Hwahong are such bastards. Ram Hwayeon is such a bitch.”

“R-right. I saw it well.”

“But you still won’t join us?”

“Cough, I’ll think about it.”

“What is there to think about! This is huge! The biggest war in Middle Earth history- well, it might not be the biggest, but anyway, at least in terms of the Fibiel Kingdom, it would be the biggest war, wouldn’t it?”

Kijung raised his voice as he did not understand Leeha. His frustration for chasing the Hwahong guild member still lingered, and his voice grew louder.

So, Leeha calmly spoke.

“That’s right.”


“Huh?”

“This will be the biggest war in the history of the Fibiel Kingdom.”

“S-so?”

“It’s not just about thinking that the war would be great or huge. It’s not only about what one would gain from that war. One also needs to think about the things one would lose because of the only me but you too.”

It’s not just about leveling down or dropping items. Leeha knew this because he already experienced guild war once with Rising Sun.

The relationship between people will never be the same as before. A lot of things would change because of .

“Haha, you’ve changed, hyung.”

“This bastard! It’s because I’m worried about you.”

And Kijung agreed with Leeha’s words with a level of excitement like a wild boar.

At least, it didn’t change how much Kijung liked Leeha.

“Okay. For now, I will tell it to our guild master. Think about it, hyung.”

“Okay. Even if I don’t join your guild-”

“Huh?”

Kijung tilted his head as Leeha murmured.

“Ah, it’s nothing. Go, now. You must be busy preparing for the war.”

“Okie. I will go now!”

Shwaak-!

Kijung tore a scroll and disappeared.

Leeha, who was left alone, murmured out loud what he was trying to say to Kijung.

“I will protect you as much as I can Kijung. From that damned Russian.”


Agromni Igor. Berserker ranked 3rd. Rumors have grown so big, that it couldn’t be helped for him to appear.

Besides, it was a war that Fei Wu would be participating in.

‘Just appear, Igor. Even if I have to die, I will get revenge.’

It be different from the last time. Leeha was not a level 20 anymore . He was angry at the madman who cut people’s heads. After he was convinced that all interest in him had waned, Leeha unblocked all whispers. To get revenge, he needed equipment.

– Hello, this is Ha Leeha. Do you want to buy the 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild?

The guild name was also a great trade item.

The sun had risen in Middle Earth. Based on Middle Earth’s time, the war between Hwahong and Byulcho will start in two days.

Leeha smiled as he patted his pocket.

A middle-aged user who fell in love with classic movies and Leeha’s videos bought the guild name from Leeha. He wanted to be like a movie actor.

‘And the money he gave was a whopping 100 gold!’

It cost 10 gold to create a guild. In other words, Leeha’s video inflated its value and earned 10 times.

Having the 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 guild name doesn’t make one capable of fighting like Leeha, nor does it make one look like a movie star.

‘That’s why I can’t understand a collector’s mind. Kek.’

In addition, he had an additional source of happiness.

The leftover money from the Rising Sun damage compensation! When he got a call from the bank asking him to visit, Leeha went there, and he got another unexpected profit.

‘It’s a whopping 88 gold!’

At first glance, rising Sun’s vault had about 4000 gold before they disbanded. About 500 million Korean Won!

It must have been an emergency fund, in other words, it was intended to be used to dispose of Rising Sun’s obstacles.

‘Those bastards had 4000 gold as an emergency fund.’

88 gold was a lot of money, it was close to 10 million Won, but compared to 4000 gold, it was ridiculously small.

It meant that Rising Sun had many victims.

“In any case, just like that, I got 188 gold in an instant! Haha.”

He naturally laughed.

Leeha visited the auction house early in the morning. Most importantly, Leeha needed a new musket.

“I graduated from the low-level store items… That’s why I need more money.”

Looking around the auction bulletin board, Leeha felt troubled.

His abilities were already exceptional. Of course, in order to buy a musket that matched his abilities, he needed more money.

‘Of course, 188 gold would be enough to buy it.’

He couldn’t shake the idea that it was somehow a waste.

Most importantly, Leeha already had a ‘guaranteed weapon’. The musket he would get once he cleared Miss Elizabeth’s Will quest.

『 Black Bass 』.

‘Since I don’t know the performance of that item, I will get this one.’

There was nothing wrong with buying a good musket. compare the two muskets in the future would turn the worse musket into a pistol.

‘There’s no need to dispose of Needle Gun-pistol, I can just use two . Well, if it doesn’t feel right, I can sell it to a store or dispose of it.’

Then one item caught his eye. Leeha’s body shivered as the huge musket caught his eyes.

A super-strong musket that weighed 6.5kg boasted a dignified, reddish-Brown appearance.

『Excellent Carbine Musket』

Attack power: 3,150

Range: 40m

Attack Speed: 1 shot per minute

Requirement: Strength 130 or higher,

Agility 600 or higher,

Black Powder,

Iron bullet,

Ramrod

Description: A powerful musket used by marines of the Kraven Kingdom. Its heavy weight and long barrel make it possible to shoot accurately even from a shaky ship.

‘T-Three thousand! The attack power is 3150?!’

The attack power of the Needle Gun when it was a musket was 688. But what was this? It was 5 times stronger?

‘If I had an item like this earlier, wouldn’t it have been easier to aim at a different part instead of a headshot?’

Unless one had heavy armor, with the musket’s attack power, one would die even if they only got hit in the shoulder, side, or thigh.

Leeha wanted to press buy immediately, but Leeha soon lowered his head.

“Kuwaa……! The agility! Strength! Why didn’t I put some points into strength!” Leeha blamed himself for neglecting strength while only paying attention to item manufacturing and critical hits.

If it’s agility, it was already 764. It had been a long time since he passed 600! With teary eyes he looked for other muskets, but most of them had strength limitations.

‘Why was I so engrossed in agility?! Shit. Although I have high agility compared to my level…’

Leeha searched lower and lower for muskets that had lower strength requirements. The lower he got, the less items he could find.

“Really… What’s the point of having a lot of money? I can’t even get a premium musket. Should I take a low-class one?”

If the item was of lower rank, the required stats would also decrease.

However, after he saw the monstrous musket, nothing else caught his eyes.

‘It’s only like this when you’re using a gun- No, I have a lot of money… then I don’t need to buy a lower rank, right?’

He didn’t need to buy a lower rank. Rather, what if it’s a high-rank low-level item? In the same way, the required stats will be less.

“Right! That’s it!”

Leeha changed the filter. Higher than the special grade! There was only one search result. The musket, which was already an unpopular item, did not even have a lot of high-rank items in the market.

However, there are times in life when one doesn’t need two muskets.

“Ugh… This…”

『Special Hummingbird』

Range: 40m

Attack Speed: 1 shot per minute

Effect : Agility +8

Requirement: Strength 70 or higher,

Agility 730 or higher,

Gunpowder,

Iron bullet,

Ramrod,

Description: A very light musket made of silver aspen wood. As it is light, it easily shakes, and aiming is difficult, making it difficult for an ordinary person to handle. If handled properly, it will be more accurate than a hummingbird. Can you honey?

The color of the butt and barrel were dark gray. A musket that had a gray tone overall, with dark cast iron barrel and gray paint

“Strength 73 and agility 764…”

The requirements directly matched Leeha’s abilities. Besides the ‘special rank’, the requirements were also overwhelming.

‘No, this is not a simple low-level high-grade item. In fact, the required stats were huge! The total stats required for the Carbine was 730. However this gun …800…!’

When was it registered for auctioning? It wasn’t only for a day or two. Because there were not many people who invested stats in an unusual way like this.

Leeha reached out towards the musket as if he had been waiting for a long time.

『 Special Hummingbird 』

Attack power: 4,760

Leeha’s hand wrapped around the musket. Its performance was worthy of the 130 gold expenditure.

(To be continued…)
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Baaang—!

The high-orc warrior screamed as the bullet pierced its thigh. It got attacked from an unknown location.

“Chwit- human bastard-”

He barely saw where the smoke came from and moved his feet, but couldn’t reach it with his slow steps.

A gunshot rang out once more, and it was not able to take .

“Chugak-!”

The bullet pierced the orc’s shoulder and completely depleted its health.

It was still more than 100 away from where the smoke rose “Phew, this is really amazing.”

It was not even a headshot. Not even at the heart. In other words, the level 100 orc died in two shots without getting hit in its weak spot.

Leeha could not help but admire his newly acquired musket, hummingbird.

‘It’s just as the description said. Light… It’s too light.’

Even if the wind blew a little, the musket was like a millet and staggered, it often shook. If it wasn’t Leeha, neither shot would have hit.

It was reasonable to have a high agility requirement in order to deal with the musket properly.

‘The thigh and shoulder were hit when I aimed at the head and the heart…’

Leeha already tried it out a few times, but he still felt that the musket was tough to handle.

If he continued hunting in the crowded Sentinel Mountain, Leeha thought that a player might have been hit.

Leeha at the place where level 100-105 high orcs appeared. He was in a hunting ground not popular with users because it was far from the Sentinel Mountains.


The normal leveling route was to go around the orc villages that corresponded to the users level in Sentinel Mountain and then go to the trolls after.

There was no need to go to this place because wasting time was equivalent to wasting money.

‘Thanks to that, it’s perfect for me.’

There was only one day left until the guild war between Byulcho and Hwahong started.

Leeha planned to level up as much as possible.

‘I have no intention of becoming a leading figure in the war.’

He didn’t belong to either guild anyway. And he didn’t have to. However, there was someone he really wanted to shoot.

‘For that one shot, I have to level up and get used to the Hummingbird.’

Shoot, and then shoot again. He pulled the trigger mercilessly until he got used to the aiming sense which was definitely different from the Needle Gun musket.

『 You leveled up. 』

‘Wow, this is really good. So easy, really easy.’

High orcs were not even able to get close before dying, and the experience they gave was quite good. Why were these guys the main force in the 2nd Human-Demon war? From Leeha’s point of view, they were nothing more than an X- for the human army.

“Haha, I haven’t gotten used to it yet, but I’ve already leveled up twice.”

This was the place he went to as soon as he bought the Hummingbird. In other words, he had continued hunting here for nearly a day. There was no way that Leeha’s level could have risen only once. He leveled up to 94 a while ago!

Rustle rustle-

The sound of grass shaking was heard from Leeha’s back, who opened his character window.

‘High orc? Did it spawn here?’ Wasn’t this place 250m away from where the high orcs respawned?!

In the past, he would have run away while reloading, but now, Leeha’s hand moved to his waist like lightning.

“Who’s there!”

The next moment, he had the needle gun-pistol in his hand. If it was in close range, no one would be able to dodge a headshot.


“Oh, a new weapon? Wouldn’t it make up for the weakness in combat? Well, if you’re satisfied at level 94, you still have a long way to go.”

“Right. It’s not there yet.”

Two female voices were heard.

Since he was in the capital with Kijung, Leeha wondered why they didn’t show up. The two figures that Leeha had predicted, showed themselves.

“Long time no see. You still talk like that.”

Leeha put the pistol in his waist again and smiled.

Ram Hwayeon smiled, and Ram Hwajung waved her small hand.

“Did you know we would come? Are you not surprised?”

“I’m not bragging, but you must have seen my videos. And in war, you need as many helping hands as you can muster.”

Leeha did not back down while dealing with Hwayeon and Hwajung.

He kind of expected them to come. What about the secret agent that Hwahong attached? Did they not discover Leeha when they were gathering information about Kijung?

If it was discovered, in Hwayeon’s eyes, Leeha was already a member of Byulcho.

It meant that there was nothing strange about trying to kill him here.

‘The fortunate thing is that I didn’t have a musket at that time.’

Unless he had that feature, they may not have recognized Leeha at that time. After examining their complexion, Leeha could be certain to some extent.

‘They didn’t know. After all, they didn’t come directly. If you’re an informant, you won’t recognize me just by looking at my back.’

As he knew why they came anyway, Leeha decided to ask his questions first.

“By the way, how did you get here? It’s not easy to find this location. It’s not like the coordinates are displayed in the friend’s window.”

Hwayeon did not answer Leeha’s question. She just smiled proudly.

The one who answered was the girl with blue hair.


“Chain teleport.”

“Huh?”

“You can go to your registered friend.”

“I-Is that so?”

Hwajung blurted out. Obviously, Leeha had more difficulty dealing with her. He’d rather deal with someone with a personality like Ram Hwayeon.

“If you know why we’re here, we could talk more quickly. Come to Hwahong. I will take care of you so you won’t feel bad.”

“Ha, haha. Are you pretending that you have won already? The Byulcho Alliance would not be easy”

A sneaky question. However, she wasn’t the one to get enthusiastic about this question.

Rather, it was Leeha that was perplexed.

“We will win. 100%”

“100… percent?”

A guild war in which everything is on the line. Leeha didn’t know what trump card each guild had, but how can she be so sure?

“You’ve been bluffing since you caught the Black Angus, but isn’t it too much this time?”

Leeha frowned slightly but the two women did not respond.

“Haha, bluffing? You know the name Ram Long, but you still say that to me. As expected, you’re funny. Right, hwajeong?”

“Yes, he’s funny.”

“Cough, no need to say thank you, right?”

Anyway, if he knew why they were so sure about victory, he might get a little greedy too, in fact, he couldn’t help but get greedy. Just as Leeha did not enter Byulcho, he had no intention of entering Hwahong.

However, he was curious about the reason why she could be so confident.

“Byulcho alliance is definitely big. It can be said that they are obsessive Koreans. All three guilds are obsessed. They have good sense and skills in dealing with Middle Earth. It’s amazing to see that they to get Dale Castle.”

Even though she was a latecomer, Ram Hwayeon admitted that she saw the whole picture.

However, from a listener’s perspective, it wasn’t too bad.

“So?”

“What do you mean by so? You don’t need multiple strategies to win against a big guild. It’s rather simple. Except for the keystone, everything is bound to collapse.”

“Hmm? Keystone?”

Click-clack click-clack –

She walked in boots with heels and stopped in front of Leeha.

She leaned over and whispered in Leeha’s ear. Her red hair fluttered in front of Leeha’s eyes.

“It is said that it is easy to kill a lion with a parasite in its stomach. Whoops.”

Then she quickly returned to her original position.

Seeing her smile happily, Leeha tilted his head.

“What are you talking about? Suddenly with the lion and parasite-”

And he realized. The meaning of Ram Hwayeon’s words.

“No way?! Surely…”

“Did you realize already? Well, if you didn’t realize that much, you wouldn’t have been able to win against Rising Sun.”

“I can win even if I didn’t notice. It only takes a single Blizzard.”

Hwajung retorted at Hwayeon’s words, but Leeha did not have time to listen.

Because of the parasite inside the lion’s stomach. And the reason she was so confident in winning.

‘There’s a traitor!’

Someone went to Ram Hwayeon’s side. Someone from the Byulcho Alliance.

—

‘Why did they suddenly call me?’

Kijung got called by Hyein instead of hunting. He said that Kijung should come to the safe house that was not usually used.

Not only the place, but his voice was a little different from usual.

‘Does he have anything to say about the war? After all, they had to think about a way so that the enemy would not be able to predict.’

Kijung thought that he was worrying for nothing and brushed off his thoughts.

Guild Master Hyein is one of the best mages in Korea. He must have found a way, and he must have called him to talk about it.

‘Oh, Leeha hyung is also connected. Kunigo Hill… he’s in the high orc village. Kek. Is he leveling up in order to join?’

Kijung smiled as he checked the friend’s window. A significant number of guild members have gathered.

There was nothing to worry about. He used a teleport scroll to the saved location!

Kijung entered the corner warehouse in the village outskirts that they rarely visit.

“Phew, sorry. I late.”

However, it was dark. It was so dark that neither the magic circle on the floor nor the people around could be seen.

Isn’t everyone here?

“Hyung-nim? Oh. Ohh! It’s too bright. Haha, whose birthday is it?”

Boom-!

In an instant light came out. Kijung blinked for a moment because of the sudden light magic.

“Kay. Don’t joke”

“…Yes. I’m sorry.”

Kijung quickly apologized for Hyein’s voice.

Normally, he would have accepted it with a smile. The war was about to start, so he was definitely nervous.

“Then today… It has come…”

Kijung looked around, dropping his easygoing attitude.

Now that he saw it, their formation was a little strange. The guild members stood around the guild master Hyein.

And there was an empty chair opposite Hyein.

“Come and sit down.”

“…Me?”

“Yes. You.”

“Oh… What is it, is it work?”

It was then that he sensed the unusual atmosphere. What is this feeling? What is this place?

In Byulcho guild, Kijung had an image of a cheerful and reliable tanker.

As he had been mainly playing party hunting, there were quite a few people in the guild who were close to Kijung.

However, all those people were looking at Kijung with dark expressions on their faces.

No, it wasn’t dark. They were close to eyes filled with anger. Even Hyein and Sasuke.

‘W-what? Why are they like this?’

There was only one person who was not angry, Tale. It was only natural for Kijung to think it was strange.

“Sit down.”

“Why are you like this, hyung-nim? This feels awful. Ah, it’s war, but-”

“Sit down, you traitorous bastard”

“What?”

Shuk-.

Kijung felt energy sweeping through his body.

『 User ‘Hyein’ attacked you. A hostile relationship formed. 』

『 Chaotic index would not increase when attacking hostile users. 』

『 ‘Block’ status has been applied. 』 『 You will not be able to use space movement magic for 30 minutes. 』

“H-Hyung-nim?”

Kijung couldn’t believe the system message that appeared in front of him.

(To be continued…)

TL’s notes: X-man – a person who is an enemy but pretends to be on the ally’s side.

a person like a spy.

What happened to Kijeon was unreasonable. This Hyein bastard had been thinking too highly of himself from the very beginning. He needs to get offed.
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“Is this a prank?”

However, Hyein did not respond. Did he really think that Kijung was a traitor?

Kijung quickly averted his eyes. He realized that it was not a countermeasure meeting.

For such meetings, executives would be gathered and discuss things. But what about this ambiguous gathering? It was a mix of executives and regular members.

If they wanted to call a meeting, they should have called everyone. He looked at the guild members….

‘What do they have in common- no, wait. Now that I think about it, their levels…are 170 or higher?’

Was that why he called them? No, it didn’t match either. They wouldn’t go hunting either, so why did he call the members who were level 170 or higher?

“What’s going on, hyung-nim? This joke is too much. Me, a traitor?”

“Did you join Hwahong? How much did they give you?”

“W-what are you talking about? Why would I join Hwahong? You know that I got attacked by Ram Hwajung!”

“Is that why you switched sides? Is she that scary?”

“What? What are you-”

“If you have any conscience, you should have reflected on it, you bastard.”

Hyein handed one of the papers given by Sasuke.

It was a screenshot that was taken in the capital. Three people were in the photo, Kijung, Leeha, and a member of Hwahong.

However, their positions were different from what Kijung remembered.

“T-This! He was following me-”


“Following? Then why were you so friendly?”

Because the member of Hwahong was standing right next to Kijung and Leeha.

It was also a screenshot where the guild mark of Hwahong was clearly visible. He should have noticed right away.

For three people to be captured in an angle like this, he should have thought ‘Where/Who took the picture?’.

However, Kijung was not able to think.

“No! Wait, that guy wasn’t… this is fabricated!”

“Fabricated? Fabricated? This bastard.” “Bahahaha! Stop lying! Do you think the Guild Master did not check it? Kijung! I thought you were smart, but aren’t you just a bat-like bastard?”

Kijung was startled by the sudden sound of ridicule from the surroundings.

What? What the hell was going on?

“What-”

“Sit down, Kay. Master has something to ask.”

“Sasuke hyung!”

“Sit down.”

When stepp back, someone caught him from behind.

Kuroninja Sasuke held a small shuriken against Kijung’s neck.

It was real. He didn’t know what it was about, but Kijung realized that these people were not joking.

“Ah, okay. I don’t know what misunderstanding you have, but if you have anything to ask, just ask.”

Kijung sat calmly. Struggling and cursing in a situation like this would only make things bigger. He thought it would be okay to solve it with a calm conversation.

However, the conversation went in the wrong direction from the start.

“…Why did you betray me?”


Hyein lowered his head and supported his forehead with a clenched fist. His voice and expression were similar to someone who got stabbed in the back. Kijung even felt the gloom.

“What betrayal?”

“Why did you betray me? Since when? Did you get persuaded after trying to persuade Ha Leeha? Did Ha Leeha say that if you join Ram Hwayeon, you will get a lot of benefits?”

“What? What? Who? Leeha hyung? What kind of relationship does Leeha hyung have with Ram Hwayeon?”

“Don’t pretend you don’t know, you bastard. Rising Sun was crushed by Ha Leeha with the help of Hwahong! Isn’t it?”

“W-W-What are you talking about? Ram Hwayeon? Why are you mentioning that bitch’s name? And Rising Sun was purely dealt with by Leeha hyung by using his skills and item combination-”

“Don’t lie, you cheeky bastard. Can’t you tell the truth?”

“No, wait. I don’t understand, what’s going on right now? You are clearly misunderstanding something.”

Hwahong looked after Leeha? It was a situation that Kijung never imagined.

In addition, if it was related to Rising Sun, he had directly heard about it from Leeha. When this and that happened, he got these and that achievements.

Hwahong was never mentioned in his stories.

“Haha, am I seriously mistaken? Right, I’m sorry! I have been terribly mistaken. Did you tell Ha Leeha to join our guild?”

“Of course! Leeha hyung told me that he would think about it-”

“Let’s think about it with common sense, Kay. Does that make sense? Our guild name helps us a lot, right? Ha Leeha doesn’t even meet the conditions of joining our guild, right? I even told you that he could join. Then why did he refuse when he has an acquaintance here?”

“T-That- Leeha hyung just recently fought Rising Sun and he’s still low-leveled. Well, he was exhausted from the war-”

“Oh, right. Was he so tired that he refused the chance to join Byulcho?”

Kijung was only repeating what Leeha said, but no one thought the same.

“W-What is it, everyone? What are you implying! No, just because he refused to join Byulcho, does not mean he has a relationship with that bitch Ram Hwayeon! It’s weirder to think like that! He does not have anything to do with Hwahong in the first place, but now suddenly-”

“Will you still pretend that you don’t know? Do we look like fools to you?”

“Y-You bastard, all that lying nonsense!”


“Let’s just torture Ha Leeha or kill him!”

Kijung provided a reasonable answer, but the situation got even more ugly. However, Hyein actually stopped the guild members.

His purpose was to kill Kijung, not Ha Leeha.

“Don’t you know why Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung appeared in Candle Castle?”

“When?”

“In the past, it was also broadcasted on Today in Middle Earth. It was reported that those two appeared in the beginner village. It was said that they were scouting someone.”

“T-That. I remember it too.”

“Haha, right. You remember. You should remember.”

As Hyein laughed, Sasuke handed another picture. It was a picture that was once a hot topic on the internet.

“The person they met at that time, the one they scouted, was your hyung, you bastard.”

“What?”

Kijung was dumbfounded. What does that mean? Leeha hyung met Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung at Candle Castle?

“It’s not just the Rising Sun. Looking back, there were a lot of strange things. Wasn’t he weird even when we first met?”

“When you first met him in the capital?”

“Yes. A person coming to the capital caught the field boss Brown Bear, and got all the items…. Does that make sense? If you believe in his words, you are blind So shut up and listen.”

Brown Bear… Kijung remembered what Leeha said.

Obviously, he said that he had risked his life to try and catch something that others failed to raid.

If Leeha’s attack power was fixed, and it was instakill, he thought it would be close, but definitely possible.

However, Hyein did not think like Kijung.

“With the help of Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, Ha Leeha grew rapidly. They gave him items and when necessary, they helped him directly, so he did not encounter any troubles. Even to the point of disbanding Rising Sun. And who would be next, me? You must have been jealous. Of that bastard, you call hyung.”

“…Nonsense! I am getting framed! Who is it?”

“So you didn’t ask Leeha to join the guild, you went to him and asked for a recommendation. You also wanted to join their guild. It’s convenient to have friends. So he called a member of the Hwahong guild and you had a talk in the capital. Before the war, Hwahong gave you an offer to leave the Byulcho Alliance, so you simply accepted, because it is easier.”

Hyein got up from his seat and white light already gathered in his body.

“How happy Hwahong must have been with the war just around the corner. No, those bitches who scouted Ha Leeha to destroy our guild from the inside out, turned Kay into Judas, must ! They might have thought that it was finally time to use their mole! Regardless of what happens to our guild, it’s all about finding a way to live right?! If this wasn’t a war and you were only taking profits! …We could just kick you out, but because of you, our guild will lose more than 2.6 billion! Do you understand?!”

“Let’s kill him, guild master!”

“You bastard! Give me the dues I paid, you shameless bastard!”

“Vomit out my savings!”

It was an absurd scenario. Truly sophistry.

In fact, it was a series of assumptions in which not a single fact had been confirmed. However, the guild members could not think normally.

They needed someone to blame for their lost investment.

“W-wait a minute! Wait a minute-!”

Kijung stood up and took his shield out. He that the time for talk was over.

“Waah! I don’t know what kind of misunderstanding, but I definitely-”

“Weaponry gate!”

Hyein finally cast his magic and a portal appeared between him and Kijung. Various types of weapons began to pour out from the gate and targeted Kijung.

“W-Wait-! Damn it, Leeha hyung and Ram Hwayeon do not have any relationship with each other, your assumptions are weird!”

Kijung barely blocked it with a shield, but the magic of Hyein, a Korean ranker, was not light. Each time a weapon collided with his shield, it got harder to hold on.

“Haa!”

A figure jumped in front of the flying weapons.

As the trajectory was changed by striking the flying weapons with meticulous swordsmanship, the surrounding personnel screamed.

“Keok! What are you doing!”

“W-What are you doing Tale-nim!”

“Wind Curtain!”

Tale struck down the weapons and made a protective shield in front o Kijung

“Tale-hyungnim? What are you doing?”

“Guild master-nim. Let’s listen to Kay’s story to the end. It seems to me that Kay does not have any connections to the Ram sisters.”

“Hmp.”

Hyein snorted. Kijung did nothing wrong? It was not important to Hyein right now.

“Tale-hyungnim…”

“I also don’t know. Kay. I don’t believe that you are a traitor. But without proof, I can’t help you anymore.”

“P-proof! Right! Proof! Don’t I just need to prove that Leeha hyung is not related to the Rambitches?”

Hyein frowned at Kijung’s shout. And he looked at Sasuke, who blocked the door, in the eye.

Sasuke nodded his head.

‘I don’t know anything else but Ha Leehaa and Ram Hwayeon are certainly connected. As days go by, Kijung’s crimes become more certain

“Good. However, if Kay can’t provide any proof, you guys will be kicked out.”

Hyein’s eyes turned to the other person.

“Tale-hyungnim must also be prepared…”

That was right. Why did he intervene? Didn’t they betray us together?

If Highlander Tale and Templar Kijung went missing, the guild’s power would definitely weaken. However, Hyein and Sasuke were already prepared for that.

It was a thousand times better than taking responsibility for the 2.6 billion loss.

‘If these two take responsibility and quit the game… no, I will make them collapse! The guild members will understand. They won’t talk about getting their money back. If that’s the case, then my position will be… phew.’

Kijung and Tale left the safe house without even having an idea of Hyein’s evil intentions.

Notes:

Bats are known to change sides depending on who is winning.

If you don’t already know, here’s Aesop’s fable regarding the bats:

https://read.gov/aesop/061.html

Thoughts:

Hyein is a rat bastard. I hate him. I hope he gets brought to justice in the future.

Also, I’m on a roll! I was able to translate 3 chapters today! 😀

I want to see the end of this war soon. I don’t know about you, but I don’t care what happens to any of them, I just want Hyein dead, and for the story to get back to Leeha. Ciao! 건배!
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“Tale-hyungnim… Thank you for believing in me.”

“You also risked your life for me, Kay. I know you are innocent.”

He was killed by Igor while stepping out for Tale, when he fell in the Tiwi Canyon battle. Tale’s trust in Kijung was great. If he didn’t believe in the man who was willing to give his life for him, who would he trust?

“By the way, why are Hyein hyung and Sasuke hyung saying that? What kind of connections does Leeha hyung have with those Rambitches?”

“That is the problem. I don’t think your hyung-nim is two-faced either.”

Tale remembered the time he met Leeha in the capital. He did not crumble in the face of the overwhelming experts.

His gait was full of strength, and his eyes were clear.

Because he felt like a martial artist, Tale had a very good impression of Leeha.

“Did you not hear anything?”

“Of course! Everyone knows that I’m enemies with those Ram-bitches. I also told Ram Hwajung that I will turn her into powder.”

Kijung trembled in resentment.

Hyein and Sasuke ran wild without listening to him.

In fact, Kijung knew how much damage they would take if they missed Dale Castle this time.

‘They must have been frustrated too. That’s why they did not listen properly. Well, if it’s 2.6 billion won, they would have been able to buy a lot of replacement items’

They have been together since the beginning of Middle Earth. It meant that the impact of Dale Castle was so great that they got shaken by such rumors.

Kijung was confident.

If he could prove Leeha’s innocence, he would be able to resolve the misunderstanding.


He would restore his relationship with his hyungs who he had played together for such a long time.

‘Ah, I’ll have to ask them to do me a favor for attacking me later. Hehe.’

Kijung opened his friend’s window while walking with Tale. Leeha was connected. His location was Kunigo Hill.

“What are you going to do?”

“I’ll talk to him…wouldn’t it be strange if I talked about it in a whisper?”

“Of course. People can only understand the truth when you talk face to face.”

“How did we go to Konigo Hill? I did not save it.”

At Kijung’s complaint, Tale pulled out two scrolls.

“Here.”

“Oh, hyung-nim? Chain teleport? It’s pretty expensive isn’t it?”

“Did you think that I did not know what you would go through?”

By the time Sasuke gathered the members and talked about Kijung’s betrayal in advance, Tale was already prepared.

There was clearly a misunderstanding.

And the best way to clear a misunderstanding was for both parties to meet. It meant that when he went to the safe house, he was preparing to go see Leeha.

“Thank you, hyung-nim.”

“Let’s go.”

Tale patted Kijung in the back and tore the scroll. They arrived at Kunigo Hill instantly.

“Phew, how could we find him here?”

“The smell of gunpowder. He’s here.”

“As expected of Tale-hyungnim.”


The two walked. It wasn’t surprising for Kijung that Leeha was capable of hunting High Orcs.

“Maybe he’s hiding somewhere and shooting? I should hurry and ask.”

“There are signs of people.”

“What? Where?”

Rustle rustle.

They walked through the bushes. Kijung also heard someone’s voice. It had a pretty high tone. It was not a man’s voice.

“One is a man, based on the smell of gunpowder, and the other two-”

‘‘!”

So the two of them are in Kunigo Hills.

“-Would you like to join our guild?”

A woman’s voice was heard.

“Unni. People.”

Ram Hwajung felt the presence of people and immediately informed Ram Hwayeon.

However, Ram Hwayeon did not respond. She was totally focused on person. Ram Hwayeon was distracted by Leeha.

Hwajung pondered if she should just cast magic. However, it was not worth it. They were too close to their location to appear as random teleporters. This wasn’t a place one should suddenly appear, so what was the other possibility?

‘A person who was a friend of oppa. Chain teleport.’

In the end, hwajeong remained silent. If he’s a friend he’ll show up on his own. If it gets dangerous, she could escape with her sister.

Besides, the real thing was about to start. It was what Hwayeon suggested and Hwajung agreed on.

It was not easy to stop at a time when she was bringing up the real purpose of coming to meet Leeha.

“Join the guild with 100% guaranteed victory. I think it’s a pretty tempting proposal. Especially for an 『 Outsider 』 like you, Ha Leeha.”


Leeha shook his head at Hwayeon’s words. The notion that there was a traitor in the Byulcho Alliance still tingled in his mind.

“I’m not an 『 Outsider 』, I’m not specifically targeting rankers.”

“Whatever you say, you are already an 『 Outsider 』. Everyone I know thinks so.”

“Uh…..”

“I came here myself. Think about it. The man I recognize-, no, I want you to know that there aren’t many people.”

Hwayeon smiled and said. It was true that the Hwahong guild was moving directly to recruit

『 Outsiders 』.

However, Ram Hwayeon did not meet those fighters.

Ram Long used its power to collect Ha Leeha related information. The result was beyond Ram Hwayeong’s imagination.

There was only one reason why Hwayeon came herself, it was because the scouting target was Leeha.

It was good to meet the only man she liked except her father.

‘Why am I thinking like this? W-what do you mean like! It’s just that he’s useful! He is also quite close to Shin Nara, and has a record of disbanding Rising Sun. Anyway, this man is not ordinary.’

Hwayeon thought hard about the ‘practical’ reason why Leeha was necessary.

Personal strength, fame, and connections. He had nothing to be proud of.

‘If it’s Shin Nara, she’s more of an NPC than a user. She doesn’t intervene in normal power struggles. What if she went out for her friend? He doesn’t need to go out by himself. He could lend me his name.’

A war that could be won with 100% chance could turn into 200%.

No, it won’t stop in Dale Castle if she gets connected to Shin Nara. A plan could be prepared for Hwahong to become the supreme authority in the Fibiel Kingdom.

‘If he doesn’t help, it would be good on its own. Anyway, she’s like a royal figure… In addition to Dale Castle, after getting and city, there would be room to negotiate with the Royal Palace through Shin Nara. Even if they only lower the fees and taxes by just a few percent, it would be a great ‘network’. In terms of power, Leeha would also be a good long-ranged escort for me. Besides, doesn’t he also have a good personality? He behaves like he could get along with everyone, and he is also strong. Ha, I didn’t know he would make friends with Shin Nara. That’s amazing as well. I like- No, no! I admit that he is ‘manly’.’

For all those reasons, she needed Leeha. The leader of Hwahong, Hwayeon, wanted Leeha even if she had to come directly.

“This is the last time I will ask. Won’t you join our guild?”

A proposal that carried a different weight from the playful proposal she gave at Candle Castle.

Rustle rustle.

Ram Hwajung was holding her breath as she waited for Leeha’s reply, when two men appeared through the bushes.

“…Leeha hyung…?”

“Leeha… Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung?”

Hwajung was the first to discover them. Who were the two men that came from the bushes?

The one who broke her Ice Wall and the one who attacked her Frost Willow. She didn’t know their names, but she knew the guild they belonged to. Her blue hair fluttered.

“Byulcho.”

Hwajung started casting.

“K-Kijung?”

“Byulcho guild? Ha Leeha, you-?”

Ram Hwayeon frowned as she looked at Leeha. What was going on? Was Ha Leeha acquainted with Byulcho guild? She didn’t hear such a thing?!

However, Ram Hwayeon who opened her mouth did not speak. She could understand the situation based on Leeha and the Byulcho guild members’ expressions.

‘This is not planned. Even the Byulcho members are perplexed. Why?’

What was their reason? It was simple.

It might be because Leeha did not tell them that he was close to Ram Hwayeon.

While everyone, including Leeha, was startled, Ram Hwayeon’s extraordinary mind quickly understood the situation.

However, it would be a pity if she was the only one who regained her composure in this situation.

“Hyung? How did this happen? Did you know the Ram sisters? Why did you keep it a secret from me? Besides, why is Ram Hwayeon asking hyung to join their guild…?”

“No, wait a minute. It’s all a misunderstanding. Listen to me.”

“I… Hyung, really, our guild…?”

Did Leeha ask Byulcho to add him to gain internal information about them in order to learn their location? To send it to Ram Hwayeon? Is that why they were counterattacked by the Ram Sisters in Tiwi Canyon and got followed by an unknown person in Aelstock?

In the end, Hyein told the truth when he said that Ha Leeha and Hwahong had a connection!

“No. I know what you’re thinking. Listen to me. The last time I met the Ram Sisters was at the Candle Castle. I was going to tell you, but the reason I didn’t tell you was-”

“Ice Blast.”

Hwajung’s casting was over.

Did Leeha and Byulcho know each other? Did Byulcho plan to attack them? It was not important for Hwajung.

All the thinking was done by her sister. And her sister did not say anything.

Then, for Hwajung, byeolcho was just an enemy. That was the only thing that mattered to her.

Three Ice Blasts poured out to Kijung and Tale.

“Kay, dodge!! Fire sword!”
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Tale grabbed Kijung’s shoulder and pulled him back while holding a flaming sword in his hand.

Although there was a fairly large difference in level, Tale was not discouraged. Facing the Ice Blast which was flying towards them, Tale raised his two-handed flaming sword.

He used a technique that accurately pierced the mana center and destroyed the magic itself. It was an attack that ordinary users couldn’t even dream of because one has to stab at a certain point.

The Ice Blast had been destroyed and turned into ice powder.

“Gust.”

“It won’t work twice. Wind Curtain!”

Hwagaak!

The strong wind current created in front of Tale and Kijung was enough to block the ice powder flying toward them.

“D-Don’t attack! Stop, Ram Hwajung! Tale-nim, stop as well!”

Leeha shouted hastily, but it was a battle between experts in which he could not intervene.

In a situation where he could not even open his eyes due to the strong wind, Leeha barely raised his head and looked at Kijung. And Kijung was also looking at Leeha.

“Kijung…”

“Hyung…”

Leeha would never forget Kijung’s expression for the rest of his life.

“I couldn’t see clearly, my eyes were blind. Let’s go back, Kay!”

Tale clenched his teeth and glared at Leeha, then grabbed Kijung.

It was evident that if the fight continued, they would not be able to defeat Ram Hwajung. They had to leave quickly when they found the chance.


“Wait! Don’t go! Kijung-ah! Kijung-ah!!”

Ram Hwajung did not release her magic until the two people disappeared.

It was only natural that they did not approach Leeha.

“Kijung-…”

Leeha stood still and was not able to do anything.

He didn’t know what to say. Should he whisper? What should he do?

It was actually Leeha who hid the fact that he knew Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung.

Of course, it was only a misunderstanding that he had passed information about the Byulcho guild or that he joined their guild, but it gave him a headache. He didn’t know where and how to solve the problem. Leeha’s mind went blank as he recalled Kijung’s expression before he disappeared.

‘I have no choice but to say everything slowly.’ I have to find Kijung first. Leeha was sure that he could find Kijung using chain teleport.

However, Leeha’s plan was disrupted instantly. Kijung and Tale had already deleted Leeha from their friends list. Their location was unknown.

‘Damn it…’

– Kijung! I’ll tell you everything from the beginning, so listen up!

Leeha hurriedly sent a whisper, but it did not go through. There was no way Kijung had already logged out. If so, it meant that Leeha got blocked.

“Uh…Damn it! Shit! Fuck!!!”

Leeha shouted in frustration, but he wasn’t swearing at Kijung. He had no choice but to blame himself for making things worse in the first place.

“Is there a misunderstanding?”

Ram Hwayeon spoke next to Leeha.

‘Right. Ram Hwayeon.’

It wasn’t until he heard her voice that he realized.

Why did Kijung misunderstand? Because he thought Leeha secretly passed information to Ram Hwayeon. He had to make it clear that he didn’t.


“Ram Hwayeon-ssi. I remember you telling me something earlier.”

“What?”

“About the parasite inside the belly of the lion. You knew that someone leaked information in Byulcho. I don’t care what method, how, or what was told! You are at least sure that there’s a spy attached by your guild, right ”

“Well. Did I? I can’t remember?”

Ram Hwayeon crossed her arms and tilted her head and smiled. And that attitude made Leeha, who was already sensitive, explode.

“Don’t fuck around and tell me.”

Leeha lifted his musket and the silver Hummingbird hummed.

Ram Hwayeon still had her arms crossed, but Ram Hwajung, who was standing beside her, changed posture. She lifted up her wand with blue marbles.

Of course. Whether it was a shield or a counterattack, the magic of the 9th ranked Ice Mage would explode towards Leeha.

If it was her casting, it was possible to cast simple magic immediately. She could kill Leeha in a blink of an eye.

“Hmm, I want to tell you but… I don’t know.”

“You don’t know?”

“It wasn’t easy to recognize with their mask on. I even recognize their voice. I wouldn’t have believed it if they didn’t mention insider information about the Byulcho guild.”

“…Is that true? If it’s a lie-”

“What if it’s a lie?”

Ram Hwayeon also raised her wand.

“Now, are you going to attack me? Ram Hwayeon?”

“If what you said is a lie, just tell me.”

“Hwahong’s guild master… No, eldest daughter of the Ram Long Group? Just because of one unknown user from Byulcho guild? Judging from the situation, it didn’t seem like he’s your real hyung.”

He had to admit what he had to admit.


Ram Hwayeon was definitely a smart woman, and her momentum was not ordinary.

The red-haired woman exuded pressure similar to the sniper training in the military.

‘Haaa…. Phew…’

But I have to say what I have to say. I need to let them know why this happened.’

“Yes. I’d rather fight you. Unknown user? As you can see, that’s true. It’s also true that he’s not my real hyung. However, Kijung is more important. All this time, I stayed quiet because I didn’t want to complicate things, but not anymore. I will tell him the truth.”

“No, no, you’re thinking about it wrongly, Ha Leeha-ssi. Think about it.”

Ram Hwayeon lowered her wand and continued.

“Even if you tell the truth, will he believe you? Or, are you going to record a fight with us? Will that work? Will he believe it?”

“That’s for me to decide.”

However, Ram Hwayeon’s words were true. Even if he recorded this and showed it, Kijung wouldn’t believe him. Even if he told him all their conversations right now, he wouldn’t believe it.

As long as they don’t catch the real traitor, Kijung would believe that Leeha betrayed him.

“Hmm, let’s go back to our previous conversation. If you didn’t want to join our guild because of your ‘dongsaeng’, then isn’t it okay now? How about joining our guild now?”

“What?”

“He’s not even your real dongsaeng! I will give you a practical reason to reduce your worries. I will hire you. Become a marksman for our guild, become my escort! Dale castle is only the beginning. To secure more castles and cities in the future, we need talented people.”

“I mean now-”

“1000 gold.”

“What?”

“We will give you 1000 gold as a downpayment. And incentives will be paid according to performance. If you want a salary, we can also give you an annual salary. If it’s you, it would be worth the investment. Abandon your dongsaeng and come to us. You are guaranteed at least 3000 gold per year. Whether it’s from incentives or annual salary, you can get around 5000 to even 10,000 gold per year.”

At least 3000 gold. It’s about 360 million Korean Won. It was Ram Hwayeon’s estimate of Leeha’s value.

The amount itself is more or less similar to what Rising Sun offered him. But it was different from the proposal back then.

It’s not about taking other people’s money and making them shed tears of blood.

He wouldn’t be doing bad things that could get him penalties from Middle Earth. It was a legal, transparent, and skill-based form of employment.

If Ram Hwayeon’s offer was true, staying in her guild for 6 to 7 years, no, it would depend on performance, so 3 to 4 years at the earliest, he could gather the 2 billion won of surgery costs which he had dreamed of.

“For reference, I signed Pei Wu for 5,000 gold. Of course, it was only for Dale Castle and not for permanent employment. Anyway, keep in mind that it’s a huge amount for a musketeer who’s not even at level 100.”

“The betrayal was only a speculation… Are you telling me to confirm it? Do you want to make Kijung’s misunderstanding about my betrayal a reality?”

Leeha barely opened his mouth. Ram Hwayeon smiled upon hearing that.

“I am not saying you should betray them. You joining our guild will not change the situation of Byulcho. After all, the Byulcho guild is not a problem for me anymore! If it were my father, he would have completely trampled on it and uprooted it so it would never happen again… It’s a waste of time for me right now. There’s one thing I want from Ha Leeha-ssi. Just give up on restoring your relationship with your dongsaeng for now, and join our guild.”

Ram Hwayeon reasonably dug into human psychology.

She said it was not a betrayal. A confident voice entered one’s head.

Can’t he join the Ram Unni’s guild and fix his relationship with Kijung later?

It was true that he hid it, but it did not really cause any damage. However, how could he get angry without listening to the other person?

Besides, what was with this huge salary? Why did Leeha start playing Middle Earth in the first place? It was for money, money!

He could close his eyes and accept the offer, and talk to Kijung later.

He could talk to him when he is free! Would he get upset without listening to Leeha?

It was truly a practical choice! It was the most effective and reasonable way!

‘…That must be what they might have thought. If it were someone else.’

But not Leeha.

The moment he received the money, Leeha’s betrayal would be confirmed.

He would completely lose Kijung, his somewhat warm and foolish cousin, the person who gave him the freedom to walk on his legs, at least in the virtual world.

Seeing Ram Hwayeon’s smile, Leeha shook his head.

“No.”

“Why not?”

“The relationship between people… is not like that Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

Ram Hwayeon’s eyes sharpened at Leeha’s words.

“Whether it’s 1000 gold or 3000 gold, it doesn’t matter. Do you know why I didn’t tell Kijung that I know you? Because of the benefits offered by being next to you someday? Or is it because Ram Hwajung is one of the world rankers? Or was it because you are the eldest daughter of the head of the Ram Long Group?”

Leeha swallowed dried saliva.

He had his reasons. He had wondered if he could get help from them.

However, the situation was different from now. The help Leeha wanted was not like this.

“Not at all! It was a short time but it was the tension of catching Black Angus together and running around, and the joy of drinking together in the pub. Because you were the first person I experienced it with- what I couldn’t do in reality! It was because I wanted to keep the memories!… I just liked you as a person, regardless of your abilities and background. I still think that you sisters are pretty funny, however…”

Click, Leeha used delicate hand movement. If he did, he really would have to fight against Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung. Leeha was sure he would lose.

Was he able to? However, he did not have any regrets.

Leeha sighed and strengthened his resolve.

“The thing I cherish more is Kijung. Even though he’s not my real hyung, I would rather fight you, than him. Of course, I would also not join the Hwahong guild.”

Leeha meant it. And his sincere words reached the other person.

Ram Hwayeon suddenly burst into laughter.
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Pfft, pfft

“Ha, ha, ha.”

Even Ram Hwajung laughed while covering her mouth.

“What’s funny?”

“He really is a likable man. Isn’t that right, hwajeong?”

“He’s funny.”

“What?”

Leeha was still seriously lifting his musket, but Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung looked at each other and laughed.

“There’s nothing more unattractive than a man without loyalty. Good. I like it. But I can’t tell you who the parasite is. I really don’t know who it is. Hwajung wasn’t even there when he approached me.”

Ram Hwayeon shrugged her shoulders while lowering her wand. Leeha got flustered at the sudden disappearance of the tension.

Did these women…test me?

“Hmm, sorry. We tried to recruit you to our guild, but everything’s a mess.”

There was no way Ram Hwayeon didn’t know. Their relationship had gone awry, there was no way for Leeha to join Hwahong guild now. No, at least ‘not now’.

“Are you going to keep holding your gun like that?”

“Damn it! You’re making me feel embarrassed.”

“Haha, my proposal itself is real. I didn’t do it to test you.”

“Huh?”


“I am willing to pay you at least 3,000 gold, whether it’s an incentive or an annual salary, including the downpayment of 1000 gold. Join us if you have any thoughts. Don’t you think it’s more efficient to find the traitor when you’re in our guild?”

Ram Hwayeon certainly was an entrepreneur and negotiator.

None of what she said was wrong.

『 Come to Hwahong. 』

But how did the atmosphere change? Unlike when they stared at each other nervously, now they are smiling harmoniously and Leeha got offered to join the guild again.

If one was an awkward person and with enough persuasion, one would answer ‘Right, that’s a good way.’

Leeha burst into laughter.

“Haha! I really can’t. Did you know that I almost nodded my head without realizing it? Thanks for the offer, but you knew that I would not join anyway, right?”

“Haha, right. Good. Good luck. Musketeer Ha Leeha-ssi. I will call you again next time.”

“Call? You just suddenly appeared out of the blue this time though.”

Ram Hwayeon turned around without answering.

“Let’s go, hwajeong.”

“Yes, unni.”

Hwajung slightly waved her hand toward Leeha.

Were the sisters acting earlier? holding up their wand and ready to shoot magic at any moment? If Leeha had pulled the trigger, would Ram Hwajung have stayed still?

While he was thinking about that, the Ram sisters used teleport and disappeared.

“Phew… What should I do?”

Leeha, who was left alone at Kunigo hill, scratched his head.

He wouldn’t be able to solve the problem in Middle Earth if he was blocked. He had no choice but to log out first.

“You are here, director-nim And young lady.”


You’re here!

In front of the Hwahong guild house, eleven people bowed their heads.

“…Didn’t I tell you not to call me ‘director’ here?”

“S-Sorry, guild master-nim.”

Ram Hwayeon walked without hesitation. The front-most person who greeted her followed Ram Hwayeon.

“Did anything special happen while I was not here?”

“That…… It’s the 『 Outsider 』 related matter you had mentioned…”

“What?”

The man looked at Hwayeon as she walked. His brow slightly furrowed.

“I contacted 20 people from the outsider list, but they all said they were not interested in the guild war.”

“Did you tell them they could fight Faust, Shin Nara, and Lee Jiwon?”

They were names that were mentioned in the Byulcho meeting. Even Ram Hwayeon knew that information in detail.

“Y-yes. They said that those rankers would not come out in these battles. Oh and they even said that they would target Hwajung-nim.”

“Those hyena-like bastards. Well, I knew it would be like this from the beginning. So, you didn’t get one?”

“No, I didn’t. It falls short of the 20 you mentioned of them accepted our proposal and is currently under negotiation. Here, person.”

As the man finished, he handed out a paper, and Hwayeon quickly scanned it.

Hwayeon, hwajeong, and the man continued walking. It was a conversation that could have been done in the office but they did not waste any second.

“The Alchemist…he would be perfect for the war. Okay. Keep going and report from time to time.”

The three of them opened the office door and entered. There were no fancy decorations. Only materials for practical use. She also watched Ram Long’s work while in Middle Earth.

“Yes, director- no, guild master-nim.”


“We must obtain Dale Castle.”

Hwayeon lightly bit her lip.

Since she started Middle Earth, she wanted to get as much profit as possible. As the Ram Long group announced the discovery of new business, it was impossible to satisfy her father with mediocre profits.

“In that case, the next successor position…”

Since the discovery of the new business, they have not yet reached any breakthrough. It was the beginning of a full-scale business in Dale Castle, so Hwayeon could not miss this event.

“Yes, I will keep that in mind. That, uh, the recruitment of the user who is connected to Shin Nara.”

The middle-aged man followed Hwayeon and served as her assistant.

One of the deputy guild masters of Hwahong guild, and the deputy director of the new business development department of Ram Long group head office.

‘Jachung’ opened his mouth.

“That thing will be on hold for a while. Things got a little complicated, no, it turned out to be fun. Right, hwajeong?”

“Yes. I look forward to seeing what oppa would do.”

Ram Hwajung said with a faint smile. Uttering pretty shocking words.

“O-Oppa?”

“Did you just say oppa, hwajeong-nim?”

“I-It’s not that…” Hwajung’s body, who sat in the swivel chair, turned around and stiffened. Hwajung got shy, but Hwayeon and Jachung thought-

‘Have you ever called someone oppa?’

‘The youngest lady… smiled and called someone oppa? She doesn’t even call the young masters oppa!’

Hwajung, who had bewildered the two of them, only dropped her blue hair in front of her and bowed down.

Hwayeon was speechless for a while but soon thought of something else.

“Ah. And.”

“Tell me, guild master-nim.”

“Find out who is giving information to Byulcho.”

“…Are you talking about that person?”

“Yes. Do you know something?”

“I don’t know anything, but we should be able to find out. I’m going to search from the bottom up.”

“Okay. Please do it quickly.”

“Yes, guild master-nim.”

It would be easy. Jachung said goodbye and left the office.

When there were no other listeners, Hwayeon smiled and said to Hwajung.

“Phew, Ha Leeha is as good as expected, right?”

“Yes.”

“He rejected our offer and was ready to fight us.”

“Silly oppa. It wouldn’t even have taken a second to kill oppa.”

“Haha, right.”

Ram Hwayeon hugged her younger sister and rubbed her hair.

“Do you think he acted like that to raise his own value?”

“Unni probably liked it.”

“Right. There are too many calculating people and the like. Tsk, there are still men who are pure and loyal… I want him…”

Ram Hwayeon’s eyes twinkled. It had several meanings.

Leeha sent a long message and connected to Middle Earth again.

Kijung was still connected and hadn’t answered the phone.

‘That child… When will you read my message? Ah, I’m sorry.’

This time, he revealed everything without hiding anything.

How he got into contact with the Ram sisters, and why he didn’t tell Kijung. What was the situation and so on?

‘Cough, I have no choice but to explain why I didn’t tell him.’

It was understandable that Kijung was angry. Even without Kijung saying it, Leeha could hear him say: ‘You like women more than your dongsaeng’.

‘I just didn’t want to interfere. I thought he might get upset.’

Phew, Leeha let out a huge sigh, fiddled with Hummingbird, and reloaded.

“Chwiik-! Chwi_!”

As the High Orc’s nose blew, a gunshot swept over it.

The High Orc got knocked down by the bullet that barely pierced its neck.

One shot, one kill. Even with a destructive power that could kill a High Orc in one shot Leeha still sighed.

‘This is the first gun that is so difficult to aim. I should be able to shoot the head by now…’

Leeha was in a rush. It was already afternoon in Middle Earth time. When the next morning came, the war between Hwahong and Byulcho would begin.

That war had absolutely nothing to do with Leeha.

He had nothing to do with Hwahong or Byulcho, it was just an interesting spectacle for Leeha.

He had no intention of intervening in the first place. He simply wanted to protect Kijung.

‘If Agromni Igor appears, I want to give him a small shot of revenge. But I’m not greedy anymore. I want to clear my misunderstanding with Kijung.…’

He should help Kijung. Of course, it didn’t mean that he would belong to Byulcho and help them. Still, as an 『 Outsider 』, he was determined to follow them.

He wanted to get revenge on Agromni Igor in front of Kijung.

There was a clear purpose for putting a bullet in the head of that madman who would definitely appear.

‘What I need for that is a secret weapon. Right now…? No, no. It shouldn’t be done in a hurry. Shit! I couldn’t take the trump card out in such an important war!’

(To be continued…)

TL’s corner:

Dongsaeng – someone younger than you, used when you are close to that person.
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The Hummingbird was definitely a good gun.

It was ‘special’ grade, so it had 1.5 times better performance than a ‘normal’ grade item, additionally, the condition for using matched Leeha’s stats.

However, it was too hard to aim! When it came to aiming, hummingbird could be considered worse than Needle Gun.

In other words, what Leeha considered as a secret weapon was 『 Black Bass 』. It meant that it was the worst match for Miss Elizabeth’s Will quest.

‘If I buy Needle Gun again, I won’t be satisfied with its attack power. More importantly, shooting Agromni Igor with the Needle Gun wouldn’t leave any damage. It means I have to use Hummingbird… With this gun…’

There was no way he could find a weapon that had overwhelming attack power and accuracy at the same time. This was Middle Earth.

There were a lot of troubles all over the place, but it was not like his skills as a ‘sniper’ would suddenly disappear. Meanwhile, the forearm of a High Orc exploded.

Another bullet followed and pierced its side and it died. Of course, Leeha was not satisfied.

He continued hunting in Kunigo Hill to raise the level of 『 Eagle Eyes 』, 『 Delicate Hand Movement 』, 『 Calm Mind 』 and 『 Snipe 』.

Even if the war out, it would take some time for a large-scale decisive battle to happen.

Even though he was impatient he did not rush, since Leeha had a way to get to the battlefield.

‘I am not able to see Kijung’s location but it’s okay.’

It was fortune misfortune. There were other members of Byulcho guild that remained on his friend’s list. Hyein and Sasuke.

Leeha focused on that point.

It was a good thing that these two people did not delete him as a friend.

Kijung would be at the location of guild master Hyein.

‘In other words, it will be the most intense battlefield, and the location where the fiercest battle takes place…’

Agromni Igor will go there.


Until then, there was only one thing he had to do.

『 You leveled up. 』

‘I am now 95. I have to be fast…!’

He had to raise his level, but despite his busy hand movement, questions rose Leeha’s mind.

Judging from Ram Hwayeon’s words, it’s clear that she was not aware of Kijung. No, it seems like she didn’t really care about Kijung in the first place.

‘There’s already a traitor in Byulcho, she didn’t care about the war. Because she was certain of victory.’

‘Then who was the one who tailed them?’ 수도 아엘스톡에서 기정과 이하

The person who followed them when Kijung and Leeha met.

Something suddenly came to Leeha’s mind.

‘Was he really a member of Hwahong?’

Did he mean to expose his guild mark so clearly? The bastard who followed them? He doesn’t even know the basics….

No, before that. Was that Hwahong’s guild mark?

“Phew, I’m losing my mind.”

No matter how much he thought about it, it was not something he could resolve immediately. For now, he had no choice but to focus on the high orcs in his sight.

Baaang—!

“So… you didn’t know this?”

“I really didn’t know…”

It was different from last time. The safe house did not have any guild members, only Sasuke, Hyein, Kijung, and Tale were there.

“That’s right, guild master. That bastard- I didn’t know he would use Kay…”

Tale was furious. And disappointed.


He was freely expressing what he felt of Leeha.

However, Kijung still had his head bowed and couldn’t think of anything else.

Why? Why? When?

He could not organize his chaotic mind. When he thought Leeha betrayed him, as Hyein and Sasuke said, it seemed suspicious that he could win 3 times.

“What should I do, Sasuke?”

In the end, they didn’t even bring anything- no, they brought evidence. Solid evidence that the marksman bastard is a traitor.

“In principle, you could kick Kijung out, and send notice to all guild members, not only of Byulcho, but also Dragon Knights and Seomgwang, that he is a traitor so that other guilds could see-”

“Sasuke, that’s too harsh. Ha Leeha that bastard is the traitor, but Kay and I-”

“You should be aware that we would not be able to help Tale-hyungnim even if we to.”

Sasuke bowed his head slightly and interrupted Tale’s words.

Right. It was obviously what Kijung and Tale said.

They were prepared to take responsibility and that they were going to get evidence that Leeha did not betray them.

“2.6 billion. No, leaving the money issue, how will you take responsibility for losing the trust of our guild members? Tale-hyungnim, please stay quiet if you don’t have any solution.”

Hyein, who watched Sasuke and Tale fight, opened his mouth. Phew, he made a long sigh that expressed his feelings.

“Responsibility…”

“Right, Kay. Responsibility. Tale-nim, I believed in you. Actually, you did nothing wrong. So what are you going to do Kay? This is because of you! This incident is caused by the hyung you brought. What are you going to do?”

“I will take responsibility.”

Kijung still didn’t raise his head. However, it was different from before. His body trembled.

“What? How? Are you going to pay back 2.6 billion?”

“Even so… you haven’t lost yet Hyein-hyungnim.”


“Then?”

“Even if it costs my life, I will solve the Dale Castle case.”

Kijung finally raised his head. There was only one emotion left in his face, with the other five now gone.

Anger. Anger that burned brightly.

While Tale was impressed with Kijung’s words, Hyein made a serious expression.

“That’s not going to work, would it? Hey, giving up your life in Middle Earth…What’s the weight of that? It would be nice if we won, but what if we don’t? 2.6 billion would be gone!”

Money, money, money! The only thing that came out of Hyein’s mouth was money.

Tale was surprised that the guild master he liked a lot had such a personality, but Kijung was not surprised.

“I will take responsibility for that as well.”

“How?”

“If we lose Dale Castle, even if we use a 『 Contract 』 I will…. somehow… no matter how long it takes…”

“Really?”

“Yes.”

The corner of Hyein’s lips rose slightly, but Kijung did not see it.

“Okay, then, you should make it clear to the guild members that you are not a traitor. Sasuke! Bring the contract.”

“Guild master!”

Tale screamed.

“Why… Why are you like this Tale-hyungnim?”

“That’s too much. Kay is a victim as well. We should hold the marksman responsible, why is Kay responsible? In addition, dale Castle’s donations, which I also invested in, are our personal responsibility. Why is Kay responsible for that? Most importantly… Didn’t the guild master invest the most?! You won’t be able to protect Kay.”

Hyein flinched at Tale’s remark, but soon his expression turned ferocious.

“He said he would take responsibility, so why is Tale-hyungnim stepping up? That’s right, I said that the investment was everyone’s responsibility, but that’s only in the case of fair investment! There’s a traitor inside, making sure that we lose our money, so what should we do? Will you fill it up?”

“T-that-”

For an individual 2.6 billion was a lot of money. It was the same even for a fairly high level in Middle Earth.

If one hit a jackpot occasionally, it would only be 10 million Won. Not even 100 million, but 26 times that number.

“I’m not doing it for money either! But our guild members don’t believe in Kay! So what should we do? Take responsibility!”

It was the guild master’s responsibility to solve such a situation.

It’s the role of the guild master to convince his guild members to believe in Kay and give him a chance to play an active part in this battle.

But Tale couldn’t speak anymore.

Hyein’s eyes, which were so wide while holding onto the 『 Contract 』, were not those of Sage Hyein, whom Tale .

‘I didn’t have the eyes to see people…’

As a martial artist, he thought he had the ability to examine people’s minds and bodies.

Ha Leeha was a traitor, Hyein was blinded by money, and Kay, who he trusted, could only get swayed helplessly.

All the people Tale chose and trusted, acted differently from Tale’s expectations.

“Sign in, Kay.”

Sasuke took the contract and handed it to Kay. When Kijung looked at the contract with blank eyes, Hyein spoke.

“Don’t worry too much, Kay. Can I make you responsible for 2.6 billion? I don’t want to lose this war as well.”

“What?”

“We are preparing a surprise, so don’t worry . This contract is used to convince our guild members.”

The guild master, whose eyes glisten before, disappeared again.

Seeing Hyein’s warm and kind smile, Kijung could keep his thoughts any longer.

Right, Hyein was such a person. He was sure he would do something.

“All right. Hyungnim.”

Scribble, scribble, scribble.

Kay signed the contract.
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“Character window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 96 (0%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 31 HP: 3,560 / MP： 760

Stats: Strength: 88 (+58)

Agility: 772 (+179)

Intelligence: 103 (+52)

Constitution: 135 (+42)

Mind: 33 (+23)

Remaining Stat points: 5

“I have been shooting all night and I only leveled up once.”

High Orcs were hunted by a party at levels 100 to 105.

Leeha, who was level 95, hunted such monsters and grew at a tremendous rate, but level was the limit.

And all the points he got so far, put into strength. For the remaining stat points, Leeha distributed between agility and strength. Two for strength and three for agility.

Stat:

Strength: 90 (+58)

Agility: 775 (+179)

Intelligence: 103 (+52)


Constitution: 135 (+42)

Mind: 33 (+23)

Remaining stat points: 0

‘My strength is at 90. I couldn’t focus on agility without knowing the required stats for 『 Black Bass 』.’

Then it could be a pie in the sky.

If Hummingbird was not registered in the auction house, Leeha would have bought Spitfire that could be used at level 60.

He did not want to experience something like leveling up and not being able to use it.

‘I have to get 100 strength first… for now I need to get back to the capital.’

It was already morning. It was the day the war between Hwahong and Byulcho .

It seemed that the two guilds not yet collided due to Hyein’s position in the friend’s window. Since it was the day the war began, very few people would put all their effort into it.

For the time being, they might test each other out.

Tsk-

Leeha tore the return scroll.

From the village close to Kunigo Hill, he would take the warp gate back to the capital. The capital was lively as always, but today the subject of discussions were all the same.

“Today?”

“Yes. I won’t go hunting because I don’t know where they fight. I might get caught in between.”

“Oh, I want to take a look.”

“You’re crazy. You might die with just a graze.”

The capital was bustling with discussions about Hwahong and Byulcho.

Who the winner would be, the location of their fight. The reinforcement for each guild.


The stories flowed as users scraped every information they could get from the internet.

“Will Hwahong win?”

“Of course. How strong is Pei Wu, the representative of the Hwangryong guild? If all those dogs attack, they would overwhelm Byulcho Alliance.”

“No, you don’t know Byulcho. There are so many Korean rankers. They are patriotic people, so shouldn’t they be united and help each other out?”

“First of all, Lee Jiwon and Shin Nara are missing. There are a lot of Koreans 100, and if you count the top 10, there are 3. They could beat Pei Wu, but the 3 of them didn’t come. There’s also Ram Hwajung.”

“Hey. Don’t make a fuss, and if you’re confident, bet on it. Sports betting companies also made bets for the guild war. If Hwahong wins you get 1.3 times, if Byulcho wins you get 2.4 times.”

“Wow, they predicted that Hwahong would win the war?”

“Yes.”

Users argued. Leeha went to his destination and carefully listened to their stories.

‘Lee Jiwon…that’s the name of the 2nd in the ranking.

‘So easy’ Lee Jiwon.

‘I thought that the Byulcho Alliance would win, but I guess they failed.’

Leeha thought about hunting orcs. If one was the head of Byulcho Alliance, what should one do to defeat Hwahong?

What tactics would be used against Pei Wu, who was ranked 4th, and the Hwangryong Guild, which had close to thousands of people?

One would be to recruit rankers, but considering the reactions of users and the betting chances, the recruitment must have failed.

‘Since Shin Nara is part of the Sacred Knights, it’s obvious that she wouldn’t participate… It must have been difficult for Byulcho.’

They had to face an alliance of guilds that had 4th and 9th in rankings without players in the top 10 of their own! Even their numbers were insufficient!

It was safe to say that the game did not work for ordinary people. In the first place, byeolcho Alliance was inferior to the point of surrendering or giving up.

However, even when the opinions of users favored Hwahong, it was not easy to determine for Leeha.

‘The words don’t go as one would expect. If it was my fight with the Rising Sun, all odds would have been against me.’


Leeha had a history of overturning the odds as well. If there are people who limit themselves to the ‘world of games’, there are also ‘beings’ that could cause a change.

“You cannot ignore Koreans… There is no one else more obsessed over enjoyment.”

Although he fell into a reverse trap, Hyein was the one who drove Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung to his desired location in order to kill them.

Because Leeha still remembered the kind and smart image Hyein had, he believed that Byulcho Alliance would have other options.

Without him knowing who was currently pushing Kijung to the brink…

“May I take your order”

After arriving at his destination. A waitress approached Leeha as he sat down, avoiding a noisy surrounding.

“Ah! Hmm, order.”

“Yes. Please tell me.”

And Leeha thought about it. Words that needed to be said at the Holy Grill Capital Branch.

“Vodka Martini. Shaken, not stirred.”

The ‘secret password’ of the Intelligence Guild.

“Are there too many people? Seeing how busy you are with customers makes me happy.”

“Huhu, does Ha Leeha-ssi want to hear the words ‘Thanks to you’ again?”

“Hehe, thank you for thinking like that.”

Leeha shrugged as Madam Ju smiled and met Leeha.

Holy Grill was definitely popular with people.

There were a lot of people chatting while enjoying the food, but there were also a lot of people who came to gather information.

‘Of course, they just didn’t know that this is an Intelligence Guild.’

Leeha also went to restaurants or pubs when he was stumped on a quest.

It was natural of players to go to the capital and its largest restaurant to find a clue for their quest.

“So, how can I help you today…?”

“I want to ask how far the last thing I asked had been going on.”

“Last time-”

“Did you forget? It’s Shinobigumi.”

“Ah… right , those people.”

Madam Ju nodded.

Why was she suddenly pretending not to know? After realizing that Madam Ju’s reaction was quite different from usual, Leeha was puzzled. Most importantly, madam Ju looked uncomfortable.

“Unfortunately, the tail was cut off.”

“What?”

“I couldn’t figure out anything.”

“I-Intelligence Guild? Is there anything that the Intelligence Guild Office in the capital cannot find out?”

“Oh my? Please don’t mistake us for daoist priests. We are not oracles, we just gather information.”

What daoist priest? You NPCs know everything through the programming operators!

Leeha wanted to spit out those words, but he couldn’t. Madam Ju lightly bit red-painted nails.

“Anyway, these people are not normal…. They are somewhat good at handling information. Don’t you ?”

“It’s just as you guessed, Ha Leeha-ssi. Only those who deal with information can avoid the eyes of the Intelligence Guild…. In the first place, this means that they could move between towns or other places without getting noticed. Perhaps they have already left Fibiel Kingdom.”

They wrapped up as soon as the war Rising Sun was over.

Leeha wanted to know the true identity of Shinobigumi through the power of the Holy Grill. However, Leeha only found one thing after such a long time.

‘They are different from Rising Sun… They have a different purpose. Besides, how did they avoid the eyes of the Intelligence Guild? Can they be treated as similar to the Information guild?

Is there such a classification?’

It was possible that they found a hidden system of Middle Earth and its gap.

They might have found some items or routes that escaped the eyes of the NPC’s Intelligence Guild.

Whatever it was, it meant that those bastards are not ordinary.

“Hmmm… Ah! Then tell me one more thing. Since you don’t know about Shinobigumi.”

“Haha, okay. Gladly.”

He said he would use the Intelligence Guild for free but Madam Ju only smiled and nodded.

Whatever it was, the fee for using the Intelligence Guild cost a huge amount of money. Right now, they were not charging Leeha, but that privilege would end sooner or later.

Before that, Leeha wanted to get as much information as he .

“You are probably aware of the war between Hwahong and Byulcho. They are fighting over the commercial monopoly of Dale Castle.”

“Uhuh”

“The full-scale battle would not happen for a while… for now, I want to know the strength of each guild rather than their battle location. Specifically, their number and ability of their members, and-”

Madam Ju nodded her head mechanically while listening to Leeha’s words.

Leeha asked the Intelligence Guild master of the capital branch of Fibiel Kingdom, more specifically, the prediction of “Goople”.

“-Who is likely to win in the end …. I am curious.”

“First of all, what you thought was wrong, Ha Leeha.”

“Huh? Yes?”

“Well, anyone would have expected that, so it’s only natural. It’s against common sense for them to fight each other at the start of the war. However, not this time. The Byulcho Alliance knows their situation and abilities very well.”

“…Surely?”

No way. Leeha opened his Friends Window and checked the location.

Hyein and Sasuke’s locations appeared to be different. Didn’t he move like Hyein’s shadow?

‘Sasuke is away from Hyein, but Byulcho and Hwahong have fought?’

Leeha had no choice but to think so.

It’s because Sasuke did not reveal his location to Leeha from the beginning. Ever since they met at Aelstock.

However, the head of the NPC’s Intelligence Guild watched everything.

“Okay, that’s probably it. The war had already begun in most areas, including the Tyrant Plains.”

Without searching or checking, they raided one of Hwahong’s main safe houses. It was a battle that no one could have predicted, even Hwahong.

“It is master said! There are not many! Only fifteen!”

“Ha, I thought I was going to get fucked by that Kay bastard! How did Hyein hyung even find out about Hwahong bastard’s safe house?”

“It doesn’t matter now!

Tie them up and get ready to enter-!”

They were overlooking a shabby-looking house. As soon as the number of enemies was identified, the dark magician stepped forward.

A job that could compete with a mage for 1st and 2nd place in terms of ‘harassment’ using ranged and DoT attack.

Dark-Brown light gathered into his body.

Soul Storm!

Kyaaa–!

In the shabby house, the hazy ghost’s face appeared and disappeared like water vapor.

“They’re tied up! Please quickly!”

“Okay! Healers, stay safe at the back! Dealers go!”

Shadowy figures were shot from the hill like arrows. Thirtyfive figures instantly closed the distance using acceleration skills.

“Frenzy sword!”

“Slash!”
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It was not a number that the 15 tied-up people could deal with.

“C-call Ram Hwajung-nim!”

“W-wait, we need to figure out the number of enemies-”

“Since it’s already happening, let’s call her first- Uwaak!”

“Oraaaaa, Gigantic Bash! Don’t give them the chance to whisper!”

A hammer the size of a child crushed a person.

The mouth of the Hwahong members froze at the attack that slaughtered a person. Most importantly, there were too many enemies. Without time to whisper, they turned gray.

“Haa, haa.”

“Okay, 1 mission accomplished. Call Sasuke-nim.”

“He would want to know, huuu, huuu.”

The Byulcho Alliance members that killed 15 Hwahong members took deep breaths and made a call. Hwahong personnel scattered from all over different safe houses while waiting for Hwayeon’s instructions disappeared from Middle Earth as soon as the war started.

On the first day of the guild war, byeolcho Alliance moved less than an hour before the war started.

In order to win, they must crush their enemies. Byulcho Alliance certainly succeeded in doing that.

“Eeek-! You didn’t expect that? So? Is it over?”

“S-sorry guild master-nim.”

Jachung bowed. It wasn’t unexpected. However, byeolcho Alliance had more people than expected.

“You know that the most unnecessary thing to say in a meeting is sorry, right? That’s not what I’m asking right now, what I want is a report starting with the damage and countermeasures!”

When Hwayeon raised her voice, all the members of Hwahong guild stepped back.


She certainly was a heroine. One hour after the start of the war, they were attacked, despite this, she did not panic. What needed to be done was to catch Byulcho Alliance before they could proceed any further.

“Okay. A total of 15 safe houses with 15 people each got destroyed by Byulcho Alliance, and all personnel died. Therefore, 132 personnel would not be able to log in for the next 10 days.”

Jachung’s words were more shocking than expected. The executive-level personnel of Hwahong Guild gathered in the conference chattered.

9 simultaneous attacks, how were they able to use such a strategy? Moreover, the distribution of people appropriate. They only sent those who could definitely overwhelm 15 members of Hwahong.

If they had sent too many or too few, they would not be able to succeed in the attack.

While everyone was surprised by the daring plan of Byulcho Alliance to mobilize more than 300 elites in an early surprise attack, Ram Hwayeon’s face contorted.

The raid was successful? There was no damage? It was not important. The important thing was how were they able to make it possible?

‘There’s an information leak. From who…? How did they find out?’

The location of safe houses was one of the top secrets for any guild. It was easy to see how nine of those locations got raided.

Ram Hwayeon cut off Jachung’s report and immediately ordered.

“We will close all the safe houses that have not yet been attacked. However, they are not permitted to gather at the guild house. Tell them to stay in the shops of the nearest town available!”

“.”

“Contact Hwangryong as well.”

“We will contact them… already? Let’s try to counterattack first…If we contact them now, we will have to pay additional money to Pei Wu and Hwangryong.”

Jachung wanted to save on expenses.

More than 130 people were killed, but there were still more than 100 people left in Hwahong.

All of them were elite members. It was even enough to attack the Byulcho Alliance and achieve results in one stroke.

Ram Hwayeon was fully aware of Jachung’s concerns.

“No, I want to make sure. Call Pei Wu and Hwangryong.”

A clear victory in exchange for money. Ram Hwayeon did not hesitate. Because she was not an adventurer, she was a businesswoman.


“Okay- hmm?”

Jachung, who looked at Ram Hwayeon with respect, tilted his head. Soon his face began to turn red.

“What is it, Jachung?”

“We got them- we got them. Dragon Knight and Seomgwang moved, there are about 70 of them. They are headed to Tygonas Plains. Among them is the Dragon Knight’s guild master…”

One of the informants they scattered finally got a result. Hearing Jachung’s words, hwajeong, who was sitting in a chair, turned around and got up.

“I will be back.”

“Hwajung, wait-”

Shuk-.

Hwajung had already used teleportation before Hwayeon could speak.

Both Seomgwang and Dragon Knights guild were elite guilds like Byulcho. There were 70 members that group, but the guts to move alone.

Other senior-level personnel looked around and swallowed dry saliva.

“Phew, come on! Attach an 『 Outsider 』 to escort Hwajung!”

“Yes guildmaster-nim. Don’t worry.”

“Information desk, analyze the reason we discovered their safe house location! You don’t have to chase after Byulcho.”

Hwayeon, who gave instructions to Jachung, looked at another executive and gave another instruction. The person in charge of information for Hwahong nodded.

“Should we stop looking for Sage Hyein?”

“Yes. You don’t have to look for him anymore. A large number of people appeared at Tygonas Plains… Anyone could see it’s a trap. Hyein and other members of Byulcho will appear there. So, we have to figure out if it was a third party who found the location of our safe houses. It would have been impossible with Byulcho Alliance’s power.”

When others were happy to catch 70 people at once, she was already one step ahead!

The young man in charge of information of Hwahong Guild was impressed by Ram Hwayeon.

“Okay, director- No, guild master-nim.”


The executive of Hwahong guild also belongs to Ram Long Head Office.

However, no one complained. Was it because her success would lead to their promotion? No.

“Move now! The gathering location is near Tygonas Plain! Keep kilometer distance from Hwajung!” It was because they knew that she had great abilities.

“Huu, huu… Really… Is it really true?”

“That means we have to do it ourselves.”

“We have no choice but to follow since it’s Sage Hyein’s plan.”

The members of Dragon Knights and Seomgwang moved carefully. Their tension would not go away because they have a clear view of the plains.

“The surprise attack worked, but this plan…”

“That’s true. Even two guild masters came… there’s no way she’ll come out like that.”

This was because the guild master of Seomgwang and Dragon Knights were included in the 70 users.

The leader of the alliance was Sage Hyein however, this did not mean that the two guild masters were inferior.

However, since Hyein’s surprise operation had been effective, they had no choice but to follow Hyein’s plan.

“Are there enemies around?”

“I them yet. There are some users in the hunting ground, but they can be ignored- O-Ohh?”

“Why? Why?”

“L-Look! Blue hair! Blue hair!”

The archer immediately picked up the bow. It was ridiculously far away, but the first reaction of all those who saw the woman was fear.

Ram Hwajung!!! It is Ram Hwajung!!!” “That’s crazy! She really came alone?!” The Dragon Knights and Seomgwang guild members got goosebumps when Hyein’s predictions came true that if they information about the movement of their troops Ram Hwajung would appear, she may be a genius at playing Middle Earth, but she was not a war genius.

‘If only we could get Ram Hwajung here-!’

She would not be able to play for 10 days. It would be a huge loss of power for Hwahong.

“Everyone, prepare for battle! Move according to Hyein’s plan! We must kill Ram Hwajung before Hwahong send reinforcement!”

The 70 man special forces group was formed for that. Users that were level 170 or higher. Even though Ram Hwajung was a ranker, the guild master of Dragon Knights was also a level 200 high-level user!

“Shoot——!!!”

With his cry light particles began to seep into everyone’s body.

Tankers and Brawlers rushed toward Ram Hwajung, there were also archers next to the mages who buffed the damage-dealers, among them were people who participated in Tiwi Canyon battle.

‘That bitch is not invincible!’

They had confidence and experience. They planned to defeat the Ice Witch Ram Hwajung, 9th in the ranking!

“Kuhaha, get her! Let’s get some achievements as well!”

“Raise your shield! Stay vigilant!”

There were more than 40 melee users running. Even in the face of 1:40 disadvantage, hwajeong did not stop. And the blue light that floated to her body did not stop as well.

“Ice Wall.”

Chwaa-!

The water vapor in the air rapidly froze.

Even though Ram Hwajung started later than the enemy, her magic activated first. Looking at it alone, one could see her skills.

Additionally, the place where the huge wall of ice appeared was between the frontline and rear.

As if she intended to separate the enemies, the magic and arrows hit the ice wall as the Dragon Knights and Seomgwang guild members released them late.

“The rear is blocked!”

“It can’t be helped, ignore-”

“…Ice Spike.”

Kwachachacha-!!

Ice spears rose in front of the melee dealers.

Like a barricade suddenly popping out of the ground, ice spears pierced the stomach of several people.

“Kuwaak!”

“Ignore it! We have to catch Ram Hwajung no matter how many people die!”

“Ice Blast.”

Huge ice balls were fired like cannons.

However, those who knew that this was Ram Hwajung’s main attack had enough time to prepare.

“Dodge! If you can avoid it, she won’t be able to cast anymore!”

Whik, whik-!

The personnel showed movements that were faster than the cannons. As the giant sphere of ice flew behind them, smiles appeared on their faces.

At the next moment, boom一!! They heard a huge boom.

“What?”

“What-?”

“Kuwaak! What, this, these pieces of ice!”
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 158

				
Translated by: xLordFifth

Edited by: Spitfirus

Magic poured out from behind them without casting. The shields they held in front of them felt useless.

“The Ice Blast was shot on the Ice Spikes on purpose?”

Their movements were agile, however, they were unable to dodge.

Ram Hwajung had no intention of targeting them from the beginning. Her goal was to break the ice spike with great force and make them scatter everywhere!

“Don’t worry about your shields! Just throw it away! It’s better to move forward! What about the rear? What about our rear?”

Although the vanguard was suddenly devastated, the rear could not help.

“Fire spear-!”

“Aura bolt-!”

Boom, boom, boom-!

The ice wall had been considerably damaged, but it was not completely gone.

“I-I can’t see properly so I can’t heal! Come this way! I-is there no one in front?! Come over here!”

The healers got flustered. They no healing target.

Something lingered over the ice wall, however, it couldn’t be targeted! Did Ram Hwajung also aim for this?!

“Ahhh一―This bitch!”

With three shots of magic, the ranks of the 70 were in disarray and their communication was cut off.

If they were normal users, they would have been overwhelmed and not able to show their strength. However, dragon Knights and Seomgwang were experienced.

“We just have to kill her! Just kill her! As long as we kill Ram Hwajung, our mission is complete!”

They had to kill one expert even if they had to sacrifice the life of 70 users.


The guild master of Dragon Knights ran forward, ignoring the wreck made by Ice Spike. Thanks to his courage, the other dealers drank potions and moved forward!

“Did you think I have any long-ranged attack!?”

Kuoook, the muscles of the Dragon Knights’ guild master expanded.

Red light flashed from his hand and flowed into the spear he was holding.

“Gae Bolg!!!!”

Shooot—-

The spear flew through the air.

Bolg, one of the best throwing skills, scattered red energy and was shot towards Ram Hwajung.

It was a speed that could not be avoided with the agility of a magician! As long as the direction was correct, there was only one thing left for her!

Chwaak…

“Please die!”

The spear flew towards Ram Hwajung’s chest. Even the people watching were so surprised that their eyes widened.

“Yes!!! Ram Hwajung is !”

“Ram Hwajung has been killed! Ram Hwajung is dead-”

“Wh… at? Why didn’t she die?”

Soon they doubted their eyes.

Although her stomach got pierced, she did not die. She was still moving.

“How… did she ?”

“No, that… what the hell is that?”

What did Gae Bolg pierce in the first place?


Small cracks began to form near the pierced Ram Hwajung.

Crack, craack—

“… Illusion…?”

“No, it’s not an illusion-”

“She took advantage of the refraction of light… and created a mirror…”

Craaash-!

The thin layer of ice broke and her figure disappeared.

From the beginning, she was using ice magic that completely froze parts of space.

She could even make use of Middle Earth’s sunlight for her ice magic.

Although it was Dragon Knight and Seomgwang expected she was not a genius of war or strateg.

Unfortunately for them, her genius on playing Middle Earth went beyond all of that.

“Fuck…”

The ‘real’ Ram Hwajung appeared next to the ice mirror that Gae Bolg had pierced.

“Frozen Orb.”

A sphere of ice shot from her wand. The sphere shot out ice awls in all directions.

No, absorb Hole-!

There was a sudden cry. The ice awls, which had been scattered, were sucked into the hole.

The ice sphere heading to the Dragon Knights’ guild master also changed its trajectory.

“Gaeryong-nim, calm down.”

“S-Sasuke-nim.”


When Ram Hwajung’s magic got destroyed, people from Byulcho appeared and helped the Dragon Knights and Seomgwang’s key figures.

“Sage Hyein.”

“Ram Hwajung…”

Absorb Hole was magic that engulfed ranged and magic attacks. The mana consumption depended on the number of attacks.

Then what happened to Hyein’s mana?

He couldn’t help but be surprised when he opened his character window, upon checking almost half of his mana was gone.

‘There was such strong magic… I also left as soon as I heard from Gaeryong.’

As soon as he heard the news that Ram Hwajung appeared, Sasuke and the other members started to move.

He could not handle using space movement magic all at once, so he split it several times, and it took 15 minutes to get to Tygonas Plains.

‘But what happened to the 70 Dragon Knight and Seomgwang members? In just 15 minutes?’

Is this the difference between rankers and non-rankers? No, this is the difference between the top 10 and top 100.

Ram Hwajung cast a new spell again as if she was not curious of Hyein’s thoughts.

It was Hyein’s turn to carry out his plan. He had to get Ram Hwajung this time.

“Dimension Lock!”

He locked a wide space. To prevent Ram Hwajung’s reinforcements from reaching her.

There were 50 Byulcho members that arrived. Combined with the existing personnel who had conserved their strength, the number of people facing Ram Hwajung was over 70 again.

“Encircle her! Approach from all sides! Ram Hwajung does not have much mana left, we can kill her! Even if you only hit Ram Hwajung once, you will have a great contribution to this war!”

Uwooohhh—!!

Hyein boosted the morale of the Byulcho Alliance.

Ram Hwajung no longer had much mana, so her casting was short and was mainly used for spells that did not consume a lot .

“Ice spear, ice spear, ice spear, ice spear.”

However, the problem was if they hit in the legs, it would have a freezing effect.

Chochochok-!

Some of the people surrounding her got hit directly. There were two people whose thighs got stuck together and another whose legs got stuck on the ground… She was shooting magic while running.

“Wow, what kind of magician can move like that-”

“C-crazy bitch. That’s a cheat. That’s a cheat!” A magician that could cast ice spear while running. From the point of view of the victims, they were infantry getting shot by a tank.

“Catch her! Fast! She’s still slower than us! She can never run away!”

More victims appeared but the Byulcho Alliance members clenched their teeth and followed Ram Hwajung.

Mages that have no movement skills and cannot move through space have clear limitations even if they were fast.

A swordsman wielding dual swords and a warrior holding a shield approached Ram Hwajung.

“I got her一!! Sky Split!”

“Shield Charge! This bitch!”

Just one hit and she would die.

Considering the offensive and stun skill, as well as the following skills later, even if only one properly connected, Ram Hwajung’s life be forfeit!

“Come out earth warriors. Protect her.”

“Hmm? W-who are you!”

It was then that an unfamiliar voice was heard. The earth began to tremble in front of the rushing warriors.

Bududuk, bududuk…….

The puppets were made of soil. Human-sized soldiers of different sizes appeared in front of Ram Hwajung.

“What is this-”

“C-Cut them!”

“Damn it! My skill!”

The dual-wielding swordsman’s Sky Split and the warrior’s Shield Charge were blocked by an earth doll. Poof, the earth doll shattered with a popping sound.

There was no counterattack or defense. The skills only touched the earth doll’s body, but that was the problem, because the skills had cooldown time. Once the effect was triggered, there would be a cooldown, so the skill could not be used. The unknown person who appeared scratched his head with a sunglasses-like item and said, “Your sister wouldn’t pay me if I don’t do my job right.”

Hwajung looked at the man and the Hwahong guards he led.

“Alchemist. Why are you here?”

“Why did I come! Your sister sent me here. What if you die wandering like that! I think it would be fun to see you die. Now, aren’t you supposed to give your oppa a kiss on the cheek, since he saved you?”

“…Crude.”

When Ram Hwajung turned her head, a guard came and handed her various potions and scrolls.

The Byulcho Alliance remained vigilant while arranging their ranks because of what Hwajung said.

“Alchemist…? This earth dolls, and those strange sunglasses-”

“Strange? You bastard think it’s weird! Hey, why is this weird! I crossed the continent in order to make this!”

He shouldn’t have been threatening with his disheveled clothes However, as the Alchemist raised his voice, the bod of the Byulcho Alliance members trembled.

“Alchemist, the 『 Outsider 』 Alchemist was in Hwahong…”

“Ahem, that’s right! You said you would recruit Faust? Where did that necromancer bast go? Did he come? It doesn’t look like he came because it doesn’t smell like rotting corpses?! The secret weapon I prepared for that bastard-”

“Noisy, move.”

“Kuwak! This little kid is strong. Are you going to fight again?”

“This is my battle. You must follow my sister’s order to protect me”

“Cough, I couldn’t do that! Since you gave me money, shouldn’t I show my value as an alchemist? And it wasn’t an order, it was a request.”

It was true that rankers and outsiders hate each other, but among them, was the most famous relationship.

It was the Ranker Necromancer’ Faust and the utsider ‘Alchemist’ Crowley.

Byulcho failed to recruit Faust, but Hwahong succeeded in getting George Crowley.

The special expert that made Byulcho Alliance clench their teeth pulled something out.

“Okay, this is a new one, so I don’t know if it will work.”

It was a bottle full of Bright Red Liquid. Crowley ran and threw the bottle with all his might.

“D-Dodge!”
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“I don’t know what happen! But it’s best to avoid that madman’s weapon!”

“Madman!”

The bottle of liquid shattered as those bastards were shouting.

They were worried that a big explosion would happen, but was that all?

“S-S-Sasuke-nim…”

“Yes, Gaeryong.”

“Quick, we have to run fast.”

“What?”

“If my prediction is right, that probably is… Vam-”

However, the words of the Dragon Knight’s guild master could not be completed.

The bright red liquid that came out of the broken bottle was— Shuwaak! It began to spit toward the sky like a fountain.

It was not a huge amount, but what was more amazing was that it was forming a certain shape.

“-pire’s blood. And what the Alchemist uses is…”

“Huuu, huuu, a blood golem came out-!” The bright red took on human form o be precise, it flowed in the shape of a human.

“And all the iron golems that assist the vampire count, rise!”

And Crowley moved and raised his hands like he was dancing.

In line with his rhythm, light flashed from the fallen Byulcho Alliance guild members who were beaten by Ram Hwajung earlier.


With a cracking noise, the armor, shields, and swords on their corpses were crushed together and also began to take on human forms.

“The commander army… ‘Mad Commander’ Crowley!”

“Kuhahaha, I really like that nickname. It’s even better because there are a lot of free materials on the battlefield!”

One of the reasons why Necromancer Faust and Alchemist Crowley had a bad relationship.

Crowley, who creates golems based on the property of the material, utilizes items worn on corpses.

However, necromancers also use corpses. And he raises the corpses to make them his own soldier.

In other words, the two had no choice but to be antagonistic with each other as they do not want to share the same materials.

“Master. It was as we thought.”

“Okay. We have , so it’s okay.”

Sasuke and Hyein’s eyes met as they faced Ram Hwajung.

They failed to catch their target, but they didn’t seem to mind it.

“Everyone retreat. Retreat! Retreat! Back off! There’s no point in fighting! Remove the space lock and everyone escape!”

“Ara? You shouldn’t leave! The battle has just begun-! Garaaaa一!!”

As Crowley raised his arms and move them like a conductor, the golems started running.

“W-What are those?”

They couldn’t believe he could create a golem…

And Leeha had been watching the figure since a while ago.

He thought about what he had to do as Ram Hwajung might be really hurt. It was no wonder that there were 『 Outsiders 』 like that.

‘I can’t see Kijung. He didn’t come?’

He waited at the place where Holy Grill predicted the ‘battlefield’ would be.


Thanks to Madame Ju’s highly accurate information, Leeha arrived just as Ram Hwajung and Dragon Knights about to fight and could watch the battle from start to finish.

Kijung’s figure was nowhere to be seen on the battlefield that was turning into a mess.

“It’s good that the surprise attack was successful, but after getting hit like that, they won’t be able to move for a while- hmm?”

Leeha was trying to analyze the battle in his own way when he felt something move in the thicket in the distance.

He was quite far from Tygonas Hill. It was not a place where one could easily see the battle.

However, Leeha was a sniper. He certainly ‘felt’ the difference in the spot where something was invisible.

‘What? Who.. is there?’ It was not visible to the naked eye.

Leeha lifted the Hummingbird and carefully examined the spot against the scale. His vision got sharper but he still couldn’t see it.

It was natural that ordinary users would not be able to see it.

‘Eagle’s Eye! Maximum magnification!’

The distance narrowed in an instant.

Leeha’s were focused on one side of the grassland with some trees and bushes that it would be embarrassing to call a forest.

Leeha looked around at the maximum magnification, but it was difficult to confirm the movement he had just felt.

‘What? Is it a monster? No, is it a player that is hunting nearby?’

However, it was strange to see that. If it was a player, he should have noticed Leeha ‘beforehand’.

There were a lot of shiny items such as armor, helmets, and swords. It would be difficult to hide in that thicket.

Then this would mean…

Wriggle.

‘Camouflage…! It’s camouflage!’

Wriggle, wriggle, Leeha finally caught the movements.


Once he found it, he looked at it attentively.

A military-colored camouflage mixed with earth, green, and black. There were at least two people wearing camouflage and watching the battle.

‘That kind of cloak… No, wait. That cloak…’

When Leeha fought Rising Sun he disguised himself using natural objects or darkness…because he couldn’t afford such professional items.

The words camouflage cloak flashed in Leeha’s mind.

‘In the capital, they wore a camouflage cloak and blended in the city! he follower who revealed the guild mark of Hwahong guild?!

Leeha concentrated his eyes. As the space lock was released and Byulcho Alliance retreated, the battle came to an end without Crowley being able to show off.

‘One.. no, two. They change direction.’

Two men in the thicket and turned to crawl.

Rustle, ustle, their cloaks flew open for a moment when they moved. Leeha did not miss the momentary gap.

“There’s none…”

I didn’t see it wrong. The Hwahong guards did not have any guild marks, it was the same for Hwajung and the Alchemist Crowley.

“There’s no Hwahong guild mark…. Who are they?”

It meant that a third party watched the battle. In a very professional way.

Leeha crouched and crawled slowly.

In Tygonas Hill, where all the members of Byulcho Alliance have disappeared, only Crowley’s shouts were heard. Leeha moved towards the thicket he had just seen.

‘There is no camouflage cloak in Middle Earth. They were not sold in the Tailor Shop and the ones he used made by using mud, branches, and camouflage cream.

A professional camouflage suit that could completely blend in with the surrounding, like the protective color of a chameleon. Leeha knew that Middle Earth did not sell such items.

‘In other words, someone made it.’

Even the color combination was very professional.

It could blend in the city as well as in the meadows. If one was Korean, one would know a bit about it because one would have gone to the military, but what if it was a civilian abroad?

‘It couldn’t be made willy-nilly. Such a professional camouflage, even removing the crawling sound…’

One would conclude that they have used it more than once or twice. And in this situation, Leeha had no choice but to think of one assumption.

‘What if these guys were the ones who came capital and showed up in front of me?’

At that time, there was a Hwahong guild mark, so he thought it was Hwahong. After that, when Ram Hwayeon came to see him, she did not know that Leeha and Kijung were acquaintances. It was only for a moment but she had a surprised expression.

‘Right, she was definitely surprised. Ram Hwayeon was surprised. So Leeha thought the follower did not tell her.

‘Because he didn’t know me.’

He wasn’t holding a musket so Leeha thought that the follower did not recognize him.

However, now that he thought about it, something didn’t add up.

The follower would not have known Leeha, but what if he took the screenshot and reported to Ram Hwayeon? If it was her, she would definitely recognize Leeha.

In other words, if Ram Hwayeon was surprised, it meant that she did not receive any report. And that person was not from Hwahong.

‘What if he’s not from Hwahong? Then who is it?’

Leeha felt goosebumps all over his body.

What was the identity of the follower that appeared in front of Leeha and Kijung in the capital? For what purpose did they appear like that?

‘Just like how the camouflage cloak was made, the guild mark of Hwahong was roughly the same…what if it was dyed?’

It was possible. Leeha had not yet found a way, but if it’s a tailor who made clothes professionally, it was possible.

Besides, what about the fast movement of the follower? Although Kijung recognized it as Hwahong, it might have been possible that only the thigh part was died red and had induced an optical illusion.

‘And if he ran away after hearing ‘Hwahong’, Kijung would misunderstand and follow him.’

Leeha was less than 300 meters from the bushes. His Eagle’s Eye skill had already been deactivated, but he could still see them.

As if afraid that they would get caught, they moved extreme vigilance so their speed was slow. An ordinary person would have been unbearably impatient.

No Leeha was almost certain. They have been trained professionally.

‘Hmm? They are taking out a scroll.’

It was not possible to change the color of such items.

Leeha was not able to see their faces, but he recognized that they pulled out a piece of Brown paper.

Shuwaak-!

After getting enough distance from the Hwahong guild, they tore the scroll and disappeared.

Neither Ram Hwajung nor the Alchemist would have known that they were observed.

“Hmm…”

It’s now time to disappear.

Hwahong began investigating whether Dragon Knight and Seomgwang only appeared in Tygonas Hill for a trap or if they had something to do here.

It would take a little longer.

‘But before I leave…’

I need to check it. Leeha took out a map.

『 Beginner’s Marking (Lv. 9) 』

Effect: Highlight and mark the target’s movement the map (2 / 3)

‘Okay, they did not use anti-marking.’

Was it because they were sure that the camouflage would not get caught?

Or was it that they can’t easily get a marking prevention system? Anyway, Leeha was happy.

‘This one misjudgment will make you regret forever.’

The experience of fighting a life and death battle against Wild Angels and Rising Sun brought back Leeha’s instinct.

The thorough sniper started moving again.
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“Now, let’s see where they are going.”

There was no need to follow after marking them. Of course, it would be better if he could follow them and know what they were doing, but Leeha was not able to.

“The two of them went in different directions. Haha, there they are.”

T1 and T2 were shown the map at different places.

If it was impossible to follow two people at the same time, it was better to watch their movement.

And Leeha thought it would be even better if an expert figured out their movement.

“Hmm, definitely… interesting. According to Leeha-ssi, they probably are…”

“Well, it’s still just a guess. Of course, madam Ju will do the final confirmation.”

“Haha, this is a win-win right?”

“It’s good for me to get the information I want, and for Madam to mobilize the capital’s Intelligence Guild, it’s good to be able to catch the tail of those unknown people. You scratch my back, I scratch yours. Killing two birds with one stone.”

When Leeha smiled, madam Ju smiled as well.

Holy Grill branch in Aelstock. Leeha unfolded the map and saw Madam Ju’s office.

“Where did they go?”

“Well, you won’t be able to tell just by looking at the map.”

Leeha continued to talk to Madam Ju. Putting in every effort to catch something that only NPCs would know. However, it was tough.

At least Madam Ju looked at the map like Leeha, but she must have seen more than Leeha.

‘It would be natural because she’s an NPC. Okay, it’s okay even if I don’t know anything right now. In the end, I only need to figure out the identities of these guys.’

The target marked as T2 moved around going to different places such as forests, mountains, valleys, and so on.


In order to prevent accidentally discovered by players, he hid several times.

They didn’t even know they were marked.

‘I still haven’t heard from Kijung. However, if he heard that someone other than Hwahong and Byulcho intervened between the two guilds, he would definitely react.’

Looking at the map, Leeha thought about Kijung.

Why did he have to appear at that point? No, how did he get to him and at that moment? And with Tale too.

The answer was simple.

‘Chain Teleport. Just like Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, Kijung used it too. To me.’

However, he did not know the reason. Why?

Why did Kijung use it at that moment? Did he come to convince Leeha? Did he want me to join Byulcho?

However, it didn’t seem to be the answer.

Did he come directly because he did not want to whisper? If that was the case, it would have been better to log out of Middle Earth and come to their house directly.

‘He even brought Tale. Besides, what he said back then was obviously…’

『 I didn’t see clearly, my eyes were blind. 』

What did that mean? It was too hasty a conclusion to spit out as soon as he saw Leeha meet with Hwahong.

Was it possible for a martial artist to immediately come to the conclusion that he did something wrong?

In other words, at that moment, Kijung and Tale went to Leeha with some ‘disturbing thoughts’.

‘They thought I might have been from Hwahong. Just a few days ago it was something that Kijung would have never thought of. Tale must have told Kijung no, someone else might have put the idea into Kijung.’

It should be someone who had huge enough influence on him, since as soon as Kijung saw Leeha and Ram Hwayeon, the friendly and kind Kijung immediately deleted him as a friend, and refused his whispers.

They planted the idea that Leeha was from Hwahong.

The series of actions and misunderstandings that took place seemed to be strangely connected, but they were not. Leeha was able to guess who it was to some extent.


“The two of them are now close to each other.”

“Oh, that’s true.”

At Madame Ju’s words, Leeha was brought back to reality. These guys. These guys might be the last puzzle to get the correct answer.

“Indeed… There was a reason why we couldn’t find them even when we searched for them in the remote areas within the kingdom.”

“Haha, really. It’s the darkest under the lamp. No, in that sense, they are great guys.”

Madam Ju nodded in admiration, and Leeha had no choice but to laugh.

The letters on the map were Candle Mountain.

It was the place where the graduation quest happened in order to get out of the beginner village Candle Castle.

In the level 13 area, t1 and T2 were together and did not go anywhere.

“How long would it take?”

“Well. If it’s ‘Shinobigumi’ as Leeha-ssi had guessed… It would take at least 10 days. Maybe more.”

“10 days? No, more than that? I think 10 days is long enough-”

NPCs would take 10 days? Now that they know that location, they should know right away!

“Ha Leeha-ssi knows it too, right? Unless we know defensive capabilities of these guys’ hideout, it would be difficult to investigate from the outside.”

Madam Ju responded like a real human. Leeha listened to her words and nodded.

“Cough, well. It really is. They succeeded in ‘avoiding’ Madam Ju’s eyes. It should take longer even with the power of the Intelligence Guild’s capital branch.”

Madam Ju’s eyebrows twitched at Leeha’s words.

“Phew… Don’t worry, we won’t miss them this time. We will find out and contact you as soon as possible.”

“Huu, okay. Okay. Then I wish you luck, madame Ju. I guess it’s true that you don’t like to lose.”

Seeing her reaction, Leeha smiled brightly. In fact, it would take a longer time to really investigate.


They had to investigate to avoid traps or boundary magic.

‘It took nearly 20 days to investigate lousy monsters like Wild Angels, let alone this time, they were people who could even avoid the eyes of NPCs. Even if it took 10 days, it would still be fast.’

What would Leeha do in the meantime? He needed to use his time efficiently.

Leeha thought about improving his Snipe skill and the accuracy of Hummingbird.

“Also, please find out where that person is.”

“Who?”

“Agromni Igor.”

Leeha, who was about to leave, suddenly remembered and asked. He was a ranker that could not be missed, although the Intelligence Guild could not catch Shinobigumi, they should be able to track Agromni Igor.

“Ah, come to think of it…”

Madam Ju replied right away. It was pretty terrible news for Leeha.

—

“What about casualties?”

“I am ashamed, guild master-nim. We were attacked inside Myos City. Four people died.”

“The enemy?”

“There were 22. The guild members fought back, but only one person was caught.”

Jachung wiped his forehead and shook his head. Ram Hwayeon wanted to scream but managed to hold back his frustration.

“Do you know how many days it has been already? How many people are there?”

“Of course. We did our best-”

“Doing your best doesn’t matter. Result important. Go.”

“Yes, guild master-nim.”

After Jachung left, Ram Hwayeon tied her hair.

After the battle on the Tygonas Plains, byeolcho did not appear again.

‘However, we’re only at the bare-bones level now.’

At the same time as the war broke out, Hwahong was exposed through surprise attacks, and a trap was made to attract Ram Hwajung.

After that? Although they waited for major battles, byeolcho Alliance chose guerilla warfare.

‘Our movement, no matter how big or small, caught and killed right after…’ “Even if a group of five or ten, they would still get beaten all the same.”

But what would happen if around 50 or 100 gathered? It was not an appropriate action because it would only be blatantly exposing Hwahong’s power and position, and it was not known what method the Byulcho Alliance would use.

The only way to avoid the sword of the Byulcho Alliance was staying at the guild house, getting stuck in the capital, or logging out. As Hwahong, they were going through a humiliating situation.

‘What if the information itself was a trap…? No, we can’t counterattack. At least up to that point, all the information was correct.’

The information the traitor from the Byulcho Alliance gave was accurate. The unfortunate thing was that it would have been different from the current situation, and after that, the traitor no longer made contact.

Ram Hwayeon felt that the odds gradually going against her.

“Where did it go wrong? Huuuu-!!”

What made Ram Hwayeon really angry was herself.

She was disappointed and blamed herself for being in a position where she was unable to properly use the information she received.

“It was a war that had a 100% chance of winning, 100%!! I even brought it, hwangryong, Pei Wu, and an Outsider, using a lot of money but, the results are-”

“Sit down, unni.”

“Hwajung, did you not hear anything? How is it going? What about Hwangryong? Did Pei Wu not say anything?”

Hwajung shook her head after hearing Hwayeon.

There was no way Hwajung knew information that Hwayeon, the guild master, did not know. It was unavoidable that she had a weak information network for this war.

Pei Wu and Hwangryong were allied with Hwahong and formed a large-scale alliance, but Byulcho was nowhere to be seen.

Crowley also had nowhere to go after Tygonas Plains, because there were no battles.

When the guerilla warfare of Byulcho Alliance continued to succeed, the public opinion in the community leaned towards Byulcho.

Step, step, in a safe house with no people.

A man who sat while roughly holding a staff stood up and asked.

“What do you think? How is it?”

“All 3 groups succeeded.”

“Hahaha, really? That’s great! Hahahaha, that’s great!”

Hyein laughed. Sasuke, who came with good news, was calm.

“Doesn’t this mean we win? Sasuke! I thought you were a shady guy! Where do you get such good information, huh?”

“Thank you, master.”

“Haha, you ice god, it’s nice if you compliment me once.”

Hyein hit Sasuke in the head with a staff. Sasuke did not react to the blow.

“Good, good. As we saw earlier, the community had turned upside down. There’s an uproar about how we are really winning. The guerilla warfare costs us money, but Hwahong suffers a lot of personnel loss, right? There would be items dropping…”

Most importantly, it means that money goes to Hwangryong and the 『 Outsiders 』 everyday.”

“Yes. If Ram Hwayeon gets support from Ram Long group she would have a lot of money, but-”

“It can’t be… do you mean?”

“Yes. Because she boasted that she would pioneer a new business on her own. She will never get additional support from her parent company.”

“Even if her parent group does, she would not take it. I don’t get that crazy bitch’s personality. Kuhahaha. Hihihi.”

Hyein laughed like a lunatic.

After laughing like that, he suddenly stopped and turned.

“No. It won’t be like that. Dragon Knights and Seomgwang whine every day, that they could not take it anymore…. Right, Sasuke, when would be the final battle? What do you think? Can we win before we run out of money? It would be fun to see Hwahong’s money disappear, unfortunately, our money would run out first.”
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Since the guild war started, he fulfilled his responsibilities as a guild master. He needed to provide the guild members with various items in order to fight properly.

Furthermore, various scrolls and buff potions were needed for guerilla warfare. Of course, if it was an ordinary guild war, a huge guild would not suffer like this.

However, it was not an ordinary guild war.

Because a significant amount of funds had already been withdrawn in order to invest in Dale Castle.

This situation didn’t only apply for Hyein, but also for the guild masters of Dragon Knights and Seomgwang guild.

The guilds warehouses had been emptied.

“Seeing that you’re asking for more time, it should take about a week more, but…It’s almost over.”

“Uh, fine. I see you becme more certain…. If we wait another week, our safe will be empty, but that’s ok. It’s still okay. If we eat Dale Castle, all the money we have spent would be covered. Isn’t that right, Sasuke?”

“That’s right, master. We would be able to recoup our current spending.”

Hyein was no longer listening to Sasuke.

His personality had already changed ever since they started going after Dale Castle. Watching him mumble to himself, Sasuke smiled for the first time.

“Assuming that you could eat Dale Castle…”

“What was that?”

“It’s nothing. I will lead the guerilla warfare for now.”

“Okay, Sasuke. I only believe in you. Guerilla warfare is our stepping stone to accomplish big things, right?”

“Of course. Well then.”

Sasuke bowed his head briefly and left the safe house. Byulcho’s guild master just sat there and looked at Sasuke’s back as he left.

“Please, you’re the only one I trust, Sasuke!”


—

The guild battle between Hwahong and Byulcho, which drew a lot of attention when the video of the early battle of the Tygonas Plain was uploaded, was slowly losing its popularity.

Contrary to the expectations of users who wanted to see a huge clash, not provide much spectacle because Byulcho Alliance only used guerilla warfare and Hwahong could only run around trying to catch them.

Two weeks passed. When the war continued for 15 days, strange rumors began to circulate in Aelstock.

“I heard Byulcho prepared a big one?”

“Byulcho? Ah, the guild war? Isn’t it over yet?”

“It’s great. I heard they were very determined to finish off Hwahong. Three experts from Byulcho Alliance will meet tomorrow and make a decision.”

“Oh, there must be something, right? Did they end up bringing in Shin Nara or Lee Jiwon? Or Faust?”

“Haha, whatever it is, it be a spectacle. It’s going to be fun.”

Leeha listened to the users’ quiet conversation.

Everyone else was curious about what each guilds’ secret weapons were, but Leeha was curious about the purpose of this obvious ‘trap’.

‘It must have been a deliberate rumor. What kind of idiot would go around talking about a secret weapon to the point where ordinary users about it?’

Byulcho must have spread these rumors for Hwahong to hear.

In other words, it was spread in order to attract Hwahong. It was a blatant provocation. To be more precise, it is a trap in order to attract Hwahong.

‘The day after tomorrow. They even told the time. Hwahong would be on alert for the next three days.’

The location would be exposed on the same day. In order to attract Hwahong, they would show a tail on purpose.

Leeha opened his friends’ window and compared the position of Hwayeon and Hyein. The two guild masters wandering around the safe houses all over Fibiel Kingdom would never meet by chance.

‘The I…?’

Leeha opened his character window and looked at his level. Level 99.

Now, even if he hunted a high orc alone, leveling up was still slow. They said that it would be the day after tomorrow, so even if he killed high orcs during that time, he could barely raise his experience.


‘I need to get to level 100 and follow them.’

It was the first time Leeha did not have to worry about any quest or adventure, and only hunt.

However, it was impossible for him to move first. Leeha could only follow once the two guilds made their move.

‘And this…’

Leeha took out a few sheets of paper from his bag.

The work he commissioned to Holy Grill was delivered with a satisfactory result. The only problem was it was not just a satisfactory result, but a shocking one at that.

Leeha recalled the conversation he had with Madam Ju at the Holy Grill a few days ago…

“This is what our informants confirmed, but…”

“But?”

“They don’t have a .”

“What?”

“They don’t have a . The people gathered there were from different guilds or people who don’t belong to any guild at all. It is clear that they were taking orders from someone, but…. it would be difficult to find any traces of their leader.”

Madam Ju shook her head and continued.

“Our informants said they have heard the word ‘Oka-san’ but that alone-”

“Oka-san-! Shinobigumi! Those guys are Shinobigumi! But they don’t have a guild?”

“Yes. So we couldn’t find any traces. They don’t even know where their head office is.”

“Ah…”

How many people knew Leeha’s name? They knew of him because Ha Leeha was set as the guild master of 『 Setting Sun Desperado 』 Wasn’t the Rising Sun’s guild master Kyokujitsu? Because both of them were registered.

In other words, shinobi-gumi did not create a guild because they did not want to reveal their guild master’s name, which would be automatically registered in Middle Earth’s system.

So users and NPCs could not easily learn their information. At that thorough movement, Leeha had no choice but to stick his tongue out.


“First of all, I wrote down the people who were identified from their appearance and characteristics. It would be faster to chase after those people in the future instead of their organization.”

The pieces of paper Madam Ju handed over to him had the profiles of several people written on them. Equipment items, costumes, characteristics of appearance and guild symbols if they belong to any guild.

“…Matsushige, mame Hana…. As well. Both of them are from Shinobigumi- huh? What?”

“…I called to show you that.”

“T-t-this… This is wrong, right?”

“No. We already checked it a few times.”

“No way…. No, no, so… so it was like that?”

Aside from Matsushige and Mame Hana, the profile of another person was written on the paper.

He couldn’t keep his mouth shut. The ominous puzzle was put together in Leeha’s mind on where it went wrong.

‘I wasn’t sure before. It was all an assumption.’

However, this was not an assumption. There was little clear information anyway. Leeha shook his head to remove all distracting thoughts.

“For now, I should focus on leveling.”

After he moved back to Kunigo Hill, he encountered the high orcs that he recently thought were boring to hunt. Their distance was approximately 280m. Leeha, without using any skill, crouched and took a shooting posture.

“Phew…”

He aimed two clicks above the high orc’s head and three clicks to the right. It was fine until 200m, however, as the distance increased, the effect of wind and gravity got stronger. In particular, the wind in the meadow could not be ignored.

“Haa…”

Before, although he found the trigger point, he could not properly aim at his target. It was because the Hummingbird would move even with just his heartbeat and pulse.

However, it was now firmly fixed. It wasn’t just Leeha’s level that had risen over the past few days.

Baaang—!

The high orc’s head exploded as a result of the gunshot.

“It would take two days.”

After checking the experience points, Leeha quickly reloaded.

“Jachung! Is it ready?”

“It’s done. We have caught the tail of Byulcho Alliance.”

Good. It’s the same as last time, they are trying to bait us-”

Hwahong’s guild house was busy.

Hwahong has already heard about Byulcho Alliance’s plan that they shared openly. Even though she knew it was a trap, Ram Hwayeon couldn’t help but bite into it.

“-but you can’t catch a dragon using a kitchen knife. Hwajung! This time, move according to the command system. If you move alone like last time I won’t forgive you.”

“Understood, unni.”

“What about Hwangryong?”

“I have contacted Pei Wu. He said that 888 of Hwangryong’s elite already on standby.”

“Tsk, he’s so eloquent but they are nothing without Pei Wu. The bluffs of those mainland guys are-”

“S-Shhh! Director- no, your voice is too loud Guild master-nim.”

As Ram Hwayeon grumbled, Jachung quickly covered her voice.

Most of Hwahong’s members were from Hong Kong, however, there were also people from the mainland. It would not do any good if they heard her words.

“I got it. Let’s make our plan run smoothly. Tell the Alchemist to wait. Those damned outsiders. I them money, but only one came…”

“Yes, guild master-nim.”

Hwayeon was so on the edge that she said things that she would not normally say. The operation of a corporation and guild so different.

‘No. Rather than that…. I should praise the enemy that did not surrender. If it was a normal enemy, it would have been over in less than a day. I heard that Koreans in the game are expert fighters themselves…’

They were a difficult enemy for Hwayeon, who had already devoured several companies while under her father.

It was the difference between Byulcho Alliance, which treats Middle Earth with the concept of ‘war’, and Hwayeon, which treats Middle Earth as ‘business’.

Moreover, the biggest variable was that Byulcho Alliance was made of Koreans.

‘Good, I should learn from my failures. Thanks to those Koreans, I learned a lot. Instead of thanking them, I should give them a shot.’

For Hwahong guild, it was one shot for revenge. It would be their last trap as Byulcho Alliance. The popcorn would not be enough for the spectators!

The rumors shed by Byulcho Alliance spread, and the fight between Hwahong and Byulcho heated up again.

It be really over this time. If the two guilds waged an all-out war, this battle would decide everything!

Byulcho Alliance had the same idea.

“This is the last time.”

“That… I’m worried if it’s possible, Hyein-nim. Even the timing is a little late-”

“There’s nothing to worry about Euncheon-nim. Hyein’s strategy had never failed until now. The question is, how long would it continue?”

“That’s right, Gaetong-nim.”

The three guild masters of the Byulcho Alliance agreed on the last trap plan. However, they were worried that all of them would act as bait for the trap.

If the guild masters died, their voice within the alliance was bound to weaken. If their members lost their guild masters, it was inevitable that they would be helpless in battle and would be pushed to the back and gain lower contributions.

They have to get it together and prevent the other guild masters from taking more money. They wanted to check everything with their own eyes. Because their alliance was made with profit in mind, they did not trust each other well.

“I can… see them…!”

“Oh, t-they’re coming!”

“Crazy fucks, buff! Buff me-”

“They still have a long way to go! The Byulcho Alliance members, which had already been buffed when they gathered had their buff removed in the middle of the battle

were drenched in fear. They had preserved their troops until by using guerilla warfare,

however, it was inevitable that they still felt fear from Hwahong’s name.

“Master. You lead.”

“Okay, Sasuke. Protect me.”

“Yes.”

Hyein, the leader of the Byulcho Alliance, stepped forward.

“Prepare for battle!!!! Let’s get those bitches’ heads and proudly enter Dale Castle!!!”

A total of 563 members of Byulcho Alliance gathered at the center of Amas Canyon.

(To be continued…)
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Waaaaah—-!

The cheers echoed in the canyon. It could even reach Hwahong who still had a long way to go.

“About 600 people. Only 200 people died out of their 800.”

If that’s all that remained in their guild, then it should be fine. They have three times the number Hwahong had, but she didn’t mind. If the 888 users from Hwangryong joined, their numbers would instantly reverse.

Additionally, they had 2 from the top 10 rankings. As well as the Alchemist, an outsider.

In terms of quality and quantity, their victory was guaranteed.

“600, hahaha, the last time I joined a war I was able to make 237 iron golems, how many would it be this time? Is Mary looking forward to it too~?”

Crowley stroked the red figure that followed him.

When he touched the blood golem, it dripped with blood, but it didn’t bother him.

The ones disgusted were the other members of Hwahong, Ram Hwayeon, and Ram Hwajung, who were next to him.

“Crowley, please don’t do such a disgusting thing and focus.”

“Hehe, disgusting? Disgusting! Don’t you know the beauty of Mary? I thought you commissioned me because you also liked beauty…”

Crowley tried to put his blood-stained hand on Ram Hwayeon’s cheek but his arms began to freeze mid-air.

Ram Hwajung did not want her sister to get dirty.

“Get your hands her.”

“Keuk, I-I haven’t touched her yet, right, hwajeong-ssi? This! You won’t freeze both hands, right!”

With his other hand, Crowley pulled a bottle of yellow liquid from the bag and poured it into his frozen hand. The frosty skin returned to its original state in an instant.

“Huuu, it’s warm…”


“What? Is that a thawing potion?”

Ram Hwayeon glanced at Crowley.

Was it a potion that instantly thaws the frozen area it is poured on? The first thought that came to her was that amount of such thing, it could pose a threat to Hwajung in the future.

However, Crowley’s answer made Hwayeon frown.

“It’s pee.”

“W-What?”

“Hahaha, it’s a joke, a joke! In Middle Earth, you can eat, sleep, and do other stuff but you won’t be able to pee!”

“…Crude.”

Hwajung pouted and the eccentric alchemist giggled and didn’t answer. Although vulgar and light-hearted, he was a man who knew how to thoroughly protect his ‘weapon’.

“Guild master-nim.”

“What’s the problem, Jachung?”

“DIdn’t the scouts say the number of Byulcho is around 600?”

“So?”

“If you consider that this is a trap…”

Jachung carefully opened his mouth. That night, Hwayeon felt uncomfortable. This should be a trap. Trap to get them out.

‘No matter how openly they baited us, is this really their whole army?’

Hwahong was also at full force, however, hwangryong hadn’t joined yet.

However, it wasn’t a problem as they were moving on foot surround the Byulcho Alliance. Even if Hyein locked the space, they should still be able to arrive quickly. ’

‘Wait a minute. Then… What is the trap?’ Was it to beat Hwahong before Hwangryong arrived? That would be a lousy and dangerous plan. Besides, it was not like they would only attack Ram Hwajung.

Does that mean Byulcho Alliance thinks it would be enough to defeat us with the members they preserved using guerilla warfare?


“What do you think Jachung?”

“I can only think that they are trying to defeat us before Hwangryong arrives.”

“Hmmm…”

It would not be possible with the numbers they have.

Although Byulcho had 3 times the number advantage over Hwahong, Hwahong had Ram Hwajung. In addition, the canyon was narrow.

With her ice magic, byeolcho’s number advantage could be filled. Didn’t Hyein think of that?

“Heh, right… As expected. That’s how it would turn out.”

Hwayeon took a deep breath. He patted Jachung, who was restless next to her, on the back.

“Don’t worry.”

“But the number of enemies have yet to be fully revealed-”

“This isn’t chess. We don’t have to figure out the exact number of enemies.”

“Then…”

There were times when one had to fight with one’s head, and times when one had to fight with brute force.

Hwayeon knew how to completely distinguish between the two.

“With overwhelming force… We will push them away.”

Hwahong began to see the Byulcho Alliance in the distance. Hwayeon raised her voice.

“Everyone! Prepare for battle! As mentioned before, each combat team would be divided into five groups consisting of 5 people! The command for each squad would be left own discretion!”

Buff magic had been cast. Light also began to flash in the Byulcho Alliance.

“What awaits us are the sweet fruits of Date Castle. Your performance pay will be based on your accomplishments first war.”

Waaaaah—!!


Middle Earth users and Ram Long Group employees.

There were those who were the head of their household.

Their resolve to be proud members of society both in Middle Earth and in reality strengthened with their shouts.

“Hwajung.”

“Casting.”

Blue energy permeated from Ram Hwajung’s body. Blizzard that did not distinguish between allies and enemies? It was a magic that was too dangerous to use at the moment.

While everyone was surprised, Ram Hwajung raised her left hand.

One of Middle Earth’s strongest magic, which had never been revealed before, was formed at the end of her wand.

~Rumble…

The wind blowing in the canyon gradually cooled.

‘Blue’ wind began to sway in the middle of the Byulcho Alliance and Hwahong.

“Arctic tornado.”

Hwajung spoke. A whirlwind containing the arctic frost that could freeze everything was created.

“Go.”

The whirlwind moved forward at her words. In the eyes of Byulcho Alliance, it was magic that was no less than a natural disaster.

“O-Ohhh? Ohhh!”

“M-M-Magic! Block it! Block that!”

It was natural for the tankers standing at the forefront to be flustered.

They thought that an ice spear, ice blast, or a ranged attack would fly towards them. But how would they stop a giant tornado?

The shield they were holding at the moment was just an inconvenience.

“Phew, as expected Hwahong is not an easy opponent. Hyein-nim, please support us.”

“I understand, eunchon-nim.”

Euncheon, the guild master of Seomgwang guild, was in front of his terrified guild members.

A lump of ocher light gathered as he cast. Hyein was able to predict what kind of magic he was about to use, so it wasn’t difficult to adjust.

“Static, wind Block!”

The energy emitted from his fingertips was directed towards the walls of the canyon. It looked like he ignored the Arctic tornado. However, the ocher-colored magic shot at the things that the Byulcho Alliance had already planted beforehand.

Bzzt, bzzt!

The totems planted on both sides of the cliff responded to the light.

The Shaman Eunchon activated the magic to bind the feet of the approaching Hwahong’s advance squad.

The wall of wind loaded with lightning, which could paralyze in a single shot, and the arctic tornado trying to break through collided, causing a gust of wind in the canyon.

“Heh…Did they come in advance just to literally set up a trap?”

“It wasn’t that hard.”

A strong wind blew towards Hwayeon’s location, and her eyes narrowed, however, hwajeong gathered mana again without fixing her fluttering blue hair.

It was definitely different from the battles of ordinary humans. However, hwajeong’s rank was higher. The arctic tornado moved forward little by little.

“Even if you use four totems, you won’t be able to block my magic…”

Eunchon was known in Korea as a magician and a high-level shaman.

It was not empty words that only those who have dealt with Ram Hwajung directly could feel her greatness.

“Isn’t that the reason why we’re here? Everyone, fire! Drive the magic at a single point!”

“Fireball!”

“Wind Cutter!”

“Fire Spear!

Shwaak-

Following Gaeryong’s instructions, various attack magic appeared from the Byulcho Alliance’s mages. However, the magic would hit the wind wall first before reaching the arctic tornado.

“It’s my job to reverse that. Dimension Twist!”

When the attacks arrived at a certain range, Hyein cast his magic.

Tsss-.

The flying magic disappeared simultaneously and silence came.

In the next moment, a huge blast echoed through the canyon from within the arctic tornado. The tornado was not able to handle a large amount of mana and exploded.

“Phew…did you move the position of the magic inside the arctic tornado?”

“You’re an interesting mage. Sage Hyein.”

Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung graciously admitted. Because they didn’t expect that single magic could deal with the Byulcho Alliance anyway.

However, they did not miss the chance when the hidden traps and large-scale magic could not be used in succession.

“Hwahong, charge!”

Ram Hwayeon moved her fingers, before the mana explosion disappeared the canyon was filled with shouts.

***

In a place that overlooked that canyon, two people crawled.

“Are you shooting well? Does it look good?”

“I-If we go any closer, we won’t be able to capture the battle anymore. They used a lot of screenshots and recording prevention!”

“Hey, you asshole! Control the distance! We have to get this scoop this time!”

“It’s not easy as it sounds, sunbae! We could broadcast something similar to “Today in Middle Earth-”

Ttak!

The sunbae smacked the back of the hubae’s head.

“Did you come all the way here just to say something like that? Did you forget what ratings you got from the live broadcast of the Minis Kingdom War on DSPN? Small and medium-sized companies like us may not be able to broadcast live, but we have to do the exclusive recordings-”

“The legendary viewership rating of the Battle for the City of Minis Kingdom! Even at 2am, the domestic audience rating alone was at 20.5%, the live broadcast rating in the U. S. was 49.1%, and the possibility of a new concept e-sports threatening the Super Bowl is confirmed! I’ll get a scab on my ear. You’ve told me that so many times already!”

“That’s right, you bastard! The battle between Hwahong and the Byulcho Alliance is no less than that! This time, a castle of Fibiel Kingdom is on the line! Besides, the personnel from all three countries, Korea, Japan, and China are part of it, so the TVs in Asia might explode!”

The hubae knew it as well. His only worry was that their location might get exposed. Dying while filming, what would be the use of that?

However, he could not stop his sunbae’s enthusiasm. He knew very well why his sunbae was greedy.

‘There’s no one around. Picking up this place is a godsent in itself. He’s a great man. He said he was crazy about the scoop……’

Most people knew that the Byulcho Alliance and Hwahong will have their final battle today. Many users tried to search for a place where they could watch it, but only these two were able to find a good spot.

The hubae looked at his sunbae respectfully as his sunbae mumbled.

“T-the arctic tornado is gone. They are charging now! Take a good shot!”

“Yes sir.’’

It was an unusual sight to see from above the canyon. The difference could be seen at first glance, however, it was Hwahong who charged forward.

They charged without fear even with the 3 times difference in number. The Byulcho Alliance prepared to defend without getting flustered even after seeing that.

The battle under the canyon that changed the color of the air with buffs, attacks, and recovery magic was bloody.

“Amazing… This should be enough to be sold to BBD or CMM rather than domestic broadcasters.”

(To be continued…)

TL’s corner:

Sunbae – Senior

Hubae – Junior
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At first, Hwahong seemed to be at a disadvantage, but as time passed, the situation changed. Unlike the Byulcho Alliance, which had its numbers decreased one by one, Hwahong’s numbers did not go down. The sunbae asked with an urging expression…

“What happened? Why did Hwahong’s numbers not decrease?”

“I-It’s increasing! Rather than increase- they rose from the dead-”

“Golem! The iron golem!”

It was due to Crowley. He was raising iron golems using the armor or sword of the corpses regardless if they were enemies or allies.

Additionally, the blood golem served as healer and dealer at the same time, it absorbed the blood of the enemies and gave them to nearby allies.

Hwahong’s momentum grew stronger, however, it did not overwhelm Byulcho, because of the golems.

“Take out the ones who are destroying the golems, especially the eye-catching ones! The one who runs around in black or white armor over there!”

“Waah?! Divine magic! He looks like a tank, but he’s dealing more damage than dealers! The two-handed swordsman running behind the white armor is no joke! They’re in sync.”

They were Sasuke, Kijung, and Tale. What kind of expression would he have made if Leeha had seen it?

Even for them, this final battle was unavoidable. Unlike other guild members who fought in groups, only Kijung and Tale worked together.

Because no one wanted to be with them, who had already been branded as ‘traitors’.

“I don’t know how many golems they destroyed. They are almost like tanks …”

The iron golems matched the number of people Hwahong lacked, however, it could not match the strength of humans. While Kijung pushed the iron golems with shield charging, Tale stabbed precisely and destroyed their cores.

Crowley alone did the job of several people, however, it wasn’t as effective as Kijung and Tale’s combination.

Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung tried to assist, however, the guild masters of the Byulcho Alliance blocked them.

The Byulcho Alliance was not as easy as they expected. Because they arrived at the canyon first, they were able to utilize the geographical features for small-scale siege battles. The flow of the battle was even more visible to the two people filming above the canyon.

“I’m leaning… towards the Koreans winning!”


“Kuu, the Koreans are determined to block the capital intrusion of the global conglomerates after all- hmm? S-Sunbae!”

“…What is that?!”

The joy was short-lived. Seeing the large number of people running over the canyon, the two were stunned. Their clothes were all yellow.

“Huu, huu, we are good at fighting, right?”

“So this is what it means to not fight Koreans…”

Ram Hwayeon accepted Hyein’s words.

They thought it was worth trying, but their battle capabilities were different than they had guessed.

With Ram Hwajung and Crowley, she thought that they would be able to survive at 4:6 even if it was a little disadvantageous…. Now the ratio of forces between Hwahong and Byulcho was 2:8.

The 600 members of the Byulcho Alliance far exceeded the average combat power that mid-level users could produce.

Still, Ram Hwayeon did not panic.

“It’s fortunate. Because the better they fight, the better my judgememt is.”

“What?”

“Jachung! The time?”

“29 minutes and 47 seconds had passed since the start of the battle. 13 seconds left.”

Jachung deliberately said the time in a loud voice. Hyein’s expression darkened.

“Damn it…”

“Hoho, right. That’s it.”

Ram Hwayeon stopped laughing and shot a fire arrow toward the sky. Everyone’s attention suddenly went up and focused on the flare.

Come! Come!

Cries of people echoed through the canyon. The enemies’ shadows lined up from where the cries came from.


“Fuck… again…”

“H-Hwangryong again? Pei Wu?”

“They’re over the cliff! They won’t be able to come all the way here anyway! It’s not possible with that distance!”

The guild members of the Byulcho Alliance fell into confusion. A sound was heard over the cliff.

If it was Pei Wu, it would be unavoidable to make a commotion if they did not want to go the way normal users go.

“Pei Wu!!!”

The 4th in the level ranking answered.

“Hwangryong, come(黃能-來來）!” Wooosh-!

Pei Wu flew, followed by the 888 elite members of the Hwangryong guild. They jumped fearlessly from the height that would make onlookers sweat.

“They’ve fallen off!”

“Even if they don’t die, they should lose at least half their health! Focus on Hwangryong-”

Flutter, flutter, flutter…

The Byulcho Alliance was still hopeful, until small parachutes opened from Hwangryong members’ back.

However, once the 888 users landed safely on the ground with reduced speed and behind the Byulcho Alliance, they lost their hope.

Hwahong in front, and Hwangryong in the back.

In the literal sense of the word, byeolcho Alliance was pushed back into the corner.

“Fufu, this is it… Isn’t it the same as in Tiwi Canyon? You must have thought of capturing us before Hwangryong came… it’s still lacking, Hyein.”

Ram Hwayeon laughed. In fact, it was safe to say that the battle was over. As long as Pei Wu was involved, byeolcho Alliance’s chance of winning was 0%.”

“The same as last time? As expected… Ram Hwayeon might be a great businessman, however, you will not be a lord in Middle Earth.”

“What?”


However, Hyein did not back down. His face which had been gloomy before suddenly became brighter.

“You thought I blocked the space to make Hwangryong jump right? However, do you remember how I did it?”

“Come to think of it…”

The space was not locked.

Hyein always blocked the space from the beginning to prevent reinforcements from coming during battle. But this time? He only used attack or defense magic, and did not lock space.

“Ram Hwayeon-nim, Ram Hwajung-nim. All 888 Hwangryong members have arrived safely.”

At the same time, Pei Wu, who bypassed the the Byulcho Alliance, stood beside Ram Hwayeon. Hearing Hyein and Hwayeon, hwajeong’s expression, who had been quiet, hardened.

“Unni! Quick!”

“Huh? W-What is it?”

“Ahahaha, did you notice it? As expected of the damned Ice Witch, but it’s too late!”

Hyein already started casting. Particles of light entered his body. Attack magic? Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung hurriedly raised their wands.

“Kuhahaha, goodbye, Pei Wu!”

Pei Wu? As Hwayeon listened to Hyein’s laughter-mixed cry her face distorted.

Why did Hyein wait? Why did Hyein continue the battle without locking the space. Did he not use space locking to save mana? That wasn’t it!

Hyein was a sage, a job specialized in space magic! In addition, he was also ranked in the top 100 in the world rankings!

“Enforce Teleport!”

“No!!!!!”

Space magic that contained all of Hyein’s mana was cast. Light-purple magic shone on the ground where Pei Wu stood.

“This…. Shwaaak-!”

Pei Wu noticed it, but it was already too late. The world’s best martial artist, who led Hwangryong’s 888 elites, disappeared from the canyon.

He was forcefully moved! The sage’s magic blew the target away to a random location regardless of the target’s will!

The Byulcho Alliance did not think of something as frivolous as catching Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung before Hwangryong came.

They just directly removed the greatest threat from the battle!

“Haa, haa, haa…… Lock the space!!! The Byulcho Alliance, our counterattack begins! Pei Wu is no longer here! Pei Wu is not here!”

Chwak, chwak-!

Dozens of scrolls were torn in an instant and enveloped the canyon. They didn’t even know where Pei Wu disappeared to in the continent.

No matter how much space he moved to get somewhere nearby, it would still take time.

“T-This is crazy, with numbers-”

No, don’t be afraid! There are still a lot of us! Jachung! Go and lead Hwangryong! The main forces of Hwahong will be the anvil, so you can hammer them from the back! Hurry, before the main forces collapse!”

“Understood, guild master-nim!”

Jachung flew away.

Ram Hwayeon’s spirit did not allow even a moment of hesitation. Although Pei Wu disappeared, the 888 Hwangryong elites still with them.

Now, Hwahong and Hwangryong had about 1000 people. Compared to Byulcho Alliance’s 400.

Ram Hwayeon realized that they had more than twice the number advantage even if Pei Wu was excluded.

And there was no way that Hyein did not know that.

“Did you think I don’t know that?”

“What?”

Paa- paa- paa-….

“We brought Hwahong to the canyon. The path is limited… When Hwangryong came to help, we sent Pei Wu away and locked the space… It must be at least an hour before Pei Wu comes back.”

A smile spread across Hyein’s face. Noise that could cover his words began to be heard from the entrance of the canyon.

“Well, even though I didn’t think that Hwangryong would come down from the cliff, it doesn’t change anything. After all, it’s not Hwangryong that we need to catch, it’s Hwahong and you bitches. When the space is locked, you bitches won’t be able to escape. We only have to block the exit.”

Paa- paa- paa-!

“Unni, behind you!”

“G-Guild master-nim! People are approaching quickly from behind- no, it’s an army-!”

“What? Who?”

A commotion broke out in the midst of Hwahong. It was not yet visible to Ram Hwayeon, however, just looking at Hyein’s laugh gave an ominous feeling.

“Hey, Ram Hwayeon. Didn’t you say it before? Isn’t this battle similar to Tiwi Canyon? But other than locking space, was there anything different from last time?”

“No… no way…”

A person she did not want to think of even in her dreams. No, she remembered the giant’s face.

“Kuhahahaha-! Those Kitai bastards don’t have Pei Wu, right?! I will cut them all up and eat them!”

“A… Ag…”

“Agromni Igor!”

“Igor-!”

Agromni Igor appeared. However, it was different from his sudden intrusion last time, this time, he was allied with the Byulcho Alliance.

Standing at the entrance of the canyon was Igor and the elites of the Russian guild ‘Czar’.

Ram Hwayeon knew it instinctively. The space was locked, and the escape route was blocked. They did not have any plan B anymore. The war will definitely end in this canyon.

With the defeat of Hwahong and Hwangryong.

Kyaaaah—!!

The berserker ran with a roar.
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Igor and Czar – Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung’s Hwahong – Hyein and the Byulcho Alliance – Hwangryong.

They were in such a position while the space was locked.

The path was narrow and the canyon was surrounded by high cliffs everywhere.

In other words, there were no detours or escape routes.

Seeing Igor’s charge, Hwahong, the Byulcho Alliance, and Hwangryong realized. They had no choice but to fight for their lives. The team that hesitated would lose!

“Protect guild master-nim!!!”

“Protect Ram Hwayeon! Leave the Byulcho Alliance to Jachung and Hwangryong! Stop his rush!!”

“Dragon Knights run! Don’t worry about Hwangryong! We just have to get Ram Hwayeon.”

“Seomgwang can’t lose, run! This war is almost over! If we catch that bitch, it’s our victory!”

“Hwangryong bind the Byulcho Alliance! Don’t let them reach the main unit!”

Everyone knew it as well. It was not the time to worry about the petty enemies in front of them. They only need to run towards one goal! It was annoying that they had to pay attention to the ones that were in front of them first because their goals conflicted.

“Kill them!”

“Cut them!”’

“Stone Edge!”

“Dig!”

“Perfect Barrier!”

“Root of Peace!”

“Kuwaa! Iron Shield!”


“H-Heal-! Here, quick-”

Skills were everywhere. A flash of light covered the canyon.

They poured their HP and MP generously and burned their lives.

“Crowley, get to unni.”

Hwajung instructed Crowley.

Has she ever felt this bad since she started Middle Earth? But the enemy’s momentum was great.

In particular, the Berserker, who ‘cut’ people down in a berserk state, and the Russian army elite guild members he led.

Hwahong’s guild members stood in front of them, however, it was nothing but standing in front of a tank with their bare bodies. At this rate, it would only take a few minutes for Igor to reach Ram Hwayeon.

“Phew! Good. I was wondering how well it would with rankers! Go, bloody Mary! Take the blood of that bulky man!”

Shwaa–…….

The blood golem turned into fog in an instant.

It was formed using the blood of vampires. A golem that could use vampires’ skills had more power than a vampire.

“Hwahong join Crowley’s golem! Stop that giant beast bastard!!”

All right!

“Kyahaaa-—”

Is this it!!!”

Bang, bang-!

The strength of the Giant Berserker was one step above the rest.

The saw-blade greatsword removed the armors of golems and players alike. He wielded something that a human had difficulty wielding with two hands in one hand, and as his hand extended a golem’s rib cage was crushed.

After swinging once, the Czar’s guild member who followed Igor it.


They were experts in battle so even killing had a division of labor, and they were not pushed aside as they had the numerical advantage over Hwahong.

“Crowley! Do something!”

“Wait a bit! The more blood that stupid Berserker sheds, the stronger my Mary would get! Blood Absorption!”

The blood mist floating in the air was absorbed into the blood golem’s body. Igor’s dark eyebrows twitched.

“You dare do that to my blood-”

“Blood explosion!”

And boom–! Blood spewed out all around the golem.

The drops spread and penetrated the flesh of Czar’s guild members. The blood that flowed from the shot went back to the blood golem and became its weapon.

“Ahahahaha! This was the blood golem’s special move! The more living things around, the greater the effect of the Mobius blood! Die in the unending feast of blood!!”

In order to not be attacked by the blood golem, the Czar’s guild members widened the distance, and the iron golems and Hwahong’s guild members gathered their strength again.

“Oh! As expected of the Mad Commander Crowley!”

“That crazy alchemist is helpful!”

While Hwahong’s morale went up, Ram Hwajung started casting a .

It was to break through the rear and make an escape route for her sister, but her efforts were quickly thwarted.

Because of the strange noises echoing on the battlefield.

Kwaduduk, kiduk, kaduk, kaduk…….

“What…… What are you doing! What are you doing you ignorant punk!!! Whoah”

“Explode! Blood explosion!”

Kaduk, kwaduk, kaduk.

Crowley shouted out the skill name with a scream, but the blood golem did not respond.


The blood golem was made of ‘blood’.

And when it came to handling blood skills, there was someone stronger than everybody else on the battlefield right now.

“Gulp, gulp, gulp.”

Agromni Igor chewed and swallowed the blood golem’s head, shoulders, and chest.

Even the blood absorption skill was not enough, so he used his mouth to bite the blood golem.

It was an act that proved the overwhelming gap in power.

Even the move that Crowley was proud of was only meant as a bite-size snack for Igor.

Although he was an outsider who could threaten rankers, at least in terms of compatibility, Crowley’s blood golem could not be compared to Berserker.

“Guoooo…… ahahaha……. What is this? Vampire blood? Giving blood to a Berserker, kyahahaha! That’s like pouring vodka to a Russian!”

Igor’s body, which had eaten the blood golem, trembled. A Berserker strengthens his body through blood.

What would happen if Igor absorbed the blood golem which was made of vampire blood?

“Unni, runaway.”

“What?”

Ram Hwajung knew. She won’t be able to stop now.

Until just now, there was a little hope, however, even that disappeared. How high would his stats increase?

Kuooooo!!!!

Igor let out a roar and jumped. Although he had a large body, his agility is comparable to a small bird.

He cut, jumped, smashed, crashed repeatedly. Every time his sword cut through the air, corpses piled up.

“Thank you, you fool!”

“Uwooooh! Who are you looking at! You ignorant bastard! I will get my revenge!”

Cheok, Crowley’s head, and body were separated. Death in one blow.

Before Ram Hwajung could cast a spell towards Igor, his sword scraped her body.

The mana particles she had gathered scattered.

“Hwajung! Hwajung!”

In less than a minute after absorbing the blood golem, all of Hwahong’s power collapsed.

Hwayeon, who was looking at her younger sister, confirmed that the battle in the rear had not yet ended and stood in front of Igor. She couldn’t let Hwajung’s level go down.

“Kuhahaha! Are you that bitch’s boss? You have guts?”

“Igor! Igor! I would like to make a suggestion. I will double the amount they promised-”

Paak-!

“Uh-!”

A fist pierced her stomach. Words did not work on a beast.

Although he must have controlled his strength, Ram Hwayeon’s vision was already red.

“Kuhahaha! Everyone stop! This war is over!!”

Igor bound Ram Hwayeon. Shortly before Ram Hwajung could die, Pei Wu disappeared, and Ram Hwayeon got captured.

“Cough… you all came…”

Jachung who had personally commanded Hwangryong’s finest had no way of dealing with the situation any longer.

They were on the verge of breaking through and getting past the Byulcho Alliance, including Hyein and the guild masters, however, the battle could not continue once Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung were neutralized. Because for him, the two girls were more important than his life.

All that was left was to surrender. The battle was over.

“We… won?”

“Did we win?! We won! We won because Igor was on our side!”

“Waaah!!! Hurray! H-Hurray! Long live the Byulcho Alliance!!!”

The canyon quickly became noisy. The other surviving guild masters of Byulcho Alliance approached Hyein and asked for a handshake.

“You’re amazing, Hyein-nim. This operation really worked… ”

“Without Pei Wu, it’s simple. When Sasuke succeeded in making contact with Igor, the success of this operation was guaranteed. Of course, the continuous guerilla warfare also made them flustered.”

They didn’t know that the smile would fade from Hyein’s face.

To him, Sasuke was nothing less than a great help. It was Sasuke who brought Hwahong’s information, and it was also Sasuke who contacted and Negotiated with Igor.

Igor walked towards Sasuke, along with the bound Ram Hwayeon. Hwahong opened the path for them, and Czar’s guild members followed Igor.

“Good job, Igor.”

“Haha. You had a hard time against these weak people? It wasn’t fun, it was not fun at all.”

Igor threw Ram Hwayeon at Sasuke’s feet.

Hyein grabbed his staff and went in front of Igor and Sasuke. All that’s left was Ram Hwayeon’s execution and the announcement of their victory in the guild battle!

“Haha, this is great! As expected of Sasuke! Come, Igor! I will now order you as your true employer. Behead Ram Hwayeon-”

“You can take care of the rest.”

“Ahh. I was going to.”

However, Sasuke opened his mouth and interrupted Hyein. Take care of the rest.

Igor nodded at the words that Hyein could not understand.

“-hmm? Sasuke? What are you saying- keok!”

Tsss-.

Igor’s greatsword moved horizontally. A red stripe went across Hyein’s chest.

With all his mana expended to make Pei Wu disappear, there was nothing he could do.

Hyein staggered and stepped back. His vision turned black and was not able to see well. He was not able to see what happened in front of him, and couldn’t understand the situation he was in. Why? Why did Igor attack him?

It was an act that was incomprehensible not only to Ram Hwajung, Ram Hwayeon, and Jachung, who was gasping for breath but also to the alliance.

“Oh, he’s dying?”

“Didn’t I tell you not to kill him!”

“What should I do if that bastard is weak?”

Igor shrugged.

Sasuke quickly took out a potion and poured it into Hyein’s mouth. Hyein, who managed to regain his sight, was still puzzled.

However, he could guess one thing based on the actions of the one speaking comfortably to Igor.

“S-Sasuke? Y… You…”

Hyein sat down, unable to speak. M-Maybe this bitch.

Sasuke, who had been with him since the beginning of Byulcho. Sasuke, who worked as Hyein’s limbs?

“Stop the cliche of betrayal, master. No, ‘Hyein’. Let’s quickly sign the contract and finish this.”

“What… Wha•…. Why? Why did you betray me?”

Sasuke pulled out a contract, however, Hyein couldn’t see it. He hoped Sasuke was kidding, hoping that all of this did not happen.

As the users of the Byulcho Alliance shouted, Sasuke calmly sat down next to Hyein.

“Phew… Why do you think I have endured all the humiliations I suffered from you?”

“What… what?”

“Actually, even if you had respected and supported me, the result would have been the same. Because I only act according to my beliefs. You can’t call that betrayal, can you? I mean, I am not your subordinate from the very beginning. Did you think I would be crazy enough to become Josenjing’s subordinate?”

Sasuke’s words were truly shocking. It was unbelievable, but Hyein could not help but believe it.

Sasuke had a different face.

TL’s note:

Josenjing is a derogatory term for Koreans used by the Japanese. Don’t call any Korean that word.

천군만마 – Cheongunmanma – One thousand soldiers, ten thousand horses. Means a great help.

The sentence was, Sasuke is nothing less than a cheon-mun-gun-man-ma. But I changed it to: Sasuke was nothing less than a great help.

It flows better, and won’t be confusing.
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“Josenjing…? You’re Japanese? When I met you-”

“Haha, I spoke Korean really well, didn’t I? Haha, you didn’t know anything about me. You thought that only Tale and Kay would be sacrificed, and you never thought that you would be the scapegoat. Ahahaha.”

“What? Kay…? Y-You must have brought the picture to me-”

“That’s why you are stupid, Hyein. How could you fall for a photoshopped screenshot? Did you even verify it with an NPC? Ah, or did you believe it because I was the one who gave it to you? Haha.”

The corner of Sasuke’s lips twisted upwards. Hyein’s eyes widened and tightened rapidly. It was a fake photo! Kijung wasn’t a traitor!

It was wrong to label Kijung and Tale as traitors, give them a bad image to the guild members, and even make them take responsibility for the 2.6 billion won loss.

‘Besides all of the…Hyein had done it himself. He did play right into Sasuke’s palm, and did all he could do to blame them! It was natural for Hyein’s face to turn red.

“You dare-”

“Tsk, tsk. Don’t get excited, Hyein. You don’t want to die, do you? To save your face, and hide the fact that you are rotten and have embezzled the funds of the alliance, shut up and sign this.”

“I-I did not embezzle it, I just borrowed it for a while! I will definitely return it later! I would definitely-”

“It is up to interpretation. Why are josenjing so against it? Are you saying that you borrowed it after using it however you wanted? Who approved of it? Whose money is it? Haha. You trusted me so much. That’s stupid.”

Hyein took Sasuke wherever he went. Sasuke knew about the minor things that Hyein had to deal with, as well as ‘everything’ he did secretly with the guild members.

“And do you want to say that I used it too? That’s right. I also took some of it and used it. But what if you die? Will you be able to fix the thing I would do before you could log in again? Hahaha. This is not a sport, Hyein. In sports, both offenders are sent off, however, it is not the case in reality. One has no choice but to believe what one hears first.”

The black shuriken in Sasuke’s hand touched Hyein’s neck.

It was cleverly hidden from the Byulcho Alliance using his back. Hyein felt how serious Sasuke was.

If he was careless, he would immediately get killed and all the blame and responsibility would be put on Hyein.

“You-”

“Sign it now. Don’t waste my time.”


Hyein looked at the contract and trembled in anger.

There was a brief description of transferring all rights of the Byulcho Alliance’s donations to the Daijunana guild.

“Don’t think about wasting time. When the guild master dies, some of his authority will be transferred to the vice-guild master. I can kill you right now and sign the contract myself. With that said, there’s still work to be done to convince those two annoying bastards. Haha, that would be good too. Because I could inflate your evil deeds and bury you forever.”

For the vice-guild master of the alliance to declare the end of the war, the consent of the other union guild masters was needed.

But what about Sasuke who knew all about Hyein’s mistakes and evil deeds? It would be enough to sacrifice Hyein and convince them.

If it’s named to Byulcho, Hyein will try to swallow everything for himself, so let’s eat Dale Castle using the name of a different guild that we have prepared.

“This Daijunana… it means ’17th’, meaning it wasn’t prepared in a day or two, right? From the very beginning… did you come to me while planning to betray me?”

What was Daijunana? Hyein turned around and tried to tell about Sasuke’s betrayal to the other two guild masters.

However, the whisper functionality has been blocked. A small scroll was torn in Sasuke’s hand.

“Haha, with a jonsenjing’s small head… don’t waste time and sign it. The moment you finish signing, I will personally cut Ram Hwayeon’s head. That’s all there is to it. You are responsible and… Kay, as well as Ha Leeha, the three of you will take the blame.”

Small-range whisper blocking. Of course, he couldn’t take his chance. Hyein clenched his teeth.

What if he didn’t sign? He would die. While he was logged out of Middle Earth, Sasuke would tarnish his name and take care of everything. He would become a traitor, and Hyein’s wealth and fame would disappear. Maybe he would get chased by Dragon Knights and Seomgwang guild forever.

If he signed it? He would lose Dale Castle. The Dragon Knights and Seomgwang guild masters will curse at Hyein. However, he might be able to tell that Sasuke ‘deceived’ him.

Of course, he would still lose his wealth and fame. He could at least save his life, and play Middle Earth a little more.

In other words, no matter what he chose, Hyein would be ruined. The only difference was dying now, or dying later.

Sasuke and Hyein were talking in a small voice, however, someone was surprised to hear him.

“This…This voice, I remember it! If you do well, we will-”

“Oh, dear. Did the princess notice now? Everything’s over anyway. Ram Hwayeon. If he signs, this guy will also cut your throat.”

Ram Hwayeon’s eyes also widened. The bat inside Byulcho! The parasite in the lion’s stomach was the vice-guild master??!

‘So…that’s why Jachung couldn’t find out!’


They couldn’t have guessed that the quiet shadow of guild master Hyein was the traitor.

At the moment that Sasuke’s eyes were focused on Ram Hwayeon, Hyein opened his mouth in a hurry.

“Here-”

“Shadow control-jutsu.”

However, Hyein’s voice did not spread. He murmured for a moment, however, Sasuke grabbed his cheeks and shook his head.

“Didn’t I tell you to stay still?”

There was no sound, and no one saw.

All members of the Byulcho Alliance were immersed in the festive atmosphere, and Hwahong and Hwangryong were filled with despair and could not concentrate on what was happening around them.

Except for one person.

“Sasuke hyung? What are you doing?”

Kijung walked towards Sasuke, Hyein, Ram Hwayeon, and Igor.

“…Get out of here, Kay. The master and I are discussing your disposal after this war. This is not something you would want to hear.”

Sasuke stood in front of Hyein, but Kijung did not miss anything. Hyein’s face can be clearly seen even though his voice could not be heard.

He could clearly see his hastily distorted expression. Kijung, one of the oldest members of Byulcho, couldn’t miss that subtle nuance.

“No… wait. I don’t think it’s that kind of atmosphere.”

“I told you not to interfere, Kay.”

“Y-You! You were with Ha Leeha-nim, right! You’ve been framed too! At this rate, you and Ha Leeha-nim-”

“Shadow control-jutsu!”

Sasuke hastily activated his skill.

Ram Hwayeon would have intervened. Kijung’s expression changed as he couldn’t hear anything because Ram Hwayeon’s mouth closed.


“Sasuke hyung…? What are you doing?”

“No, nothing. This bitch must have wanted us to fight among ourselves.”

“That… I don’t think so.”

Kijung slowly raised his sword and shield. He didn’t know what else to say. He didn’t understand the situation either. Something came to mind, however, he wasn’t sure.

But looking at Hyein’s urgent expression and Ram Hwayeon’s words, Kijung moved his body.

Ha Leeha-ssi.

Although she said that in a panic, Kijung got the feeling that she was thinking about him and Leeha.

Although she was an enemy, she was more trustworthy than Sasuke’s crafty tone.

“Ahahaha, damn it. Hey, Kay. Don’t even think of coming back to the table when you have been discarded. If you keep quiet and tell them what I tell you to tell them, I will take care of you.”

“Come again?”

“It’s a matter for adults. You can just pretend that you don’t know anything, and get some benefits. Jonsenjings are good at things like that, right?”

Sasuke’s words and actions were relaxed.

He was confident that his plans had succeeded at this moment.

As long as Agromni Igor stood behind him.

“Now, sign this, Hyein. It’s time for you-”

“Shield charging!”

“Cough, shunpo!”

Sasuke was blown away by the skill that Kijung suddenly used.

Their position changed in an instant. Kijung stood in front of Hyein and Ram Hwayeon to protect them.

“Kay.”

“I understand…I loosely looked at the 『 contract 』… I understand it roughly. Sasuke hyung, no, Sasuke, you were the culprit. You are the reason I was accused of having connections with Hwahong through Leeha hyung, right?”

“Tsk, what are you going to do about it? You have no evidence. Would the guild members even believe you?”

It was then that the noisy Byulcho Alliance became quiet for a moment.

However, the majority of the guild members did not know what happened. Rather, byeolcho blamed Kijung.

“What are we going to do with that traitor?”

“The guild war is over. The guild master-nim and Sasuke-nim will take care of it.”

Sasuke shrugged as he heard those words. Kijung was a little confused for a moment, as Sasuke continued.

“And Hyein is trash. You don’t know it yet. Did you know that this bastard was preparing to blame you if we lost this war? But isn’t it funny that you are protecting a guy like that?”

It was true. It was true that Sasuke planned it, but it was not like Hyein was not responsible for anything.

It was Sasuke who claimed that Kijung joined hands with Hwahong through Leeha, however, even if they didn’t really join forces, Hyein took advantage of it and tried to lighten the responsibility of the guild master.

In any case, from Kijung’s position, Hyein also tried to use him.

“It’s funny…Sasuke, you too, Hyein hyung! You only think about yourselves. I didn’t come forward to protect Hyein hyung.”

“What?”

Kijung turned around and looked at Hyein. He was a close older hyung and they have been together since the early days of Middle Earth, and someone who tried to hold him responsible.

Kijung looked at Hyein and then turned to Sasuke again.

“What I want to protect is our guild. It’s Byulcho.”

“Haha, the people that call you a traitor? You’re not going to kill me, and tell them about this, right? There’s no way these people would believe what you say without evidence.”

Sasuke laughed hysterically. However, the light in Kijung’s eyes did not diminish at all.

“I don’t know how difficult it would be! After I stop you! Someday…they will find out eventually!”

Kijung took a long deep breath. His confusion did not go away easily.

It was to the point that he did not even know what exactly he was saying.

“I can’t let you take the money the members invested using their efforts, time and just to fulfill your own self-interest. Because… Because it is the hope of the Byulcho guild members!”

However, whether he knew the situation properly or not, his fighting spirit flowed as he raised his sword and shield.

It was the will of a templar.

“I will never let you take it away. I will stop it.”

“Phew… That’s why kids.”

Sasuke shook his head. It would have been more convenient to settle things with words.

The longer it took, and the more they made a fuss, the more the Byulcho Alliance members would pay attention to them.

“Well, there are other methods but… it would get annoying. Sayonara, Kay.”

Kijung was branded as a traitor already. Sasuke could quickly deal with Kijung and Hyein and turn the situation around. turned his head and looked at Igor.

“Kuhahaha, do you want me to deal with it?”

“Quietly. And quickly.”

“Haha, good, good! I think I remember you! Aren’t you the one who was guarding the bastard back then?”

Igor clicked his tongue. His appearance when he chewed the blood golem and licked his lips and cheeks made it difficult to think of him as someone who possessed intelligence.

“Huu, huu, huuu.”

After getting mercilessly beheaded by Igor, Kijung’s spirit grew a lot.

He also learned a linked skill that could be used to deal with giants. Kijung promised to himself that he would let the crazy berserker bastard once he met him again.

‘Move, please legs, move!’

However, he had difficulty facing the immense killing intent focused toward him. It felt like his limbs were bound with just Igor’s spirit without using any skill.

“Are you ready, kid?”

(To be continued…)
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Igor stood in front of Kijung and smiled. The height difference was 50cm. Kijung shook his head. He saw Igor’s shoulder muscles twitch.

He was about to swing his sword. He just had to use his skill. And his shield must be raised.

‘Please, please!’

However, his mouth didn’t stop. Is this what fear was like? It was completely different from when he stopped in front of Sasuke.

Even though he had caught many large monsters in the past, the memories of ‘his head getting cut’ did not disappear easily. He was overwhelmed by a terrifying feeling that was almost like a trauma.

“Kuhahaha, it’s a mistake to face me. I will cut you again. S-low-ly… I will cut off your arms, and legs, and make them look like ‘Matryoshka’!”

Igor raised his sword.

At this moment, Kijung was not standing in front of Hyein and Hwayeon to protect them. He was just waiting to be executed like them.

Seeing Kijung standing in front of Igor, Hyein and Hwayeon lowered their heads.

It’s all over now.

“Please make me happy, kid! I will not kill you easily, Kyahahaha!!! Blood Jet!”

Blood coated the sawblade-like sword. The blood looked like a chainsaw.

“N-no! Kay!!”

Tale, who had discovered Kijung late, ran.

He barely pushed himself between the guild members’ gap, but the distance was considerable. Kijung would die before he could get there.

Igor had already raised his sword.

Shwiik-!


Drops of blood condensed on the blade and made a bloody sound.

“First, the right arm!”

And the moment he swung his arm!

Bang-…….

Igor’s head tilted back. Ttak-! They then heard the sound of popping popcorn.

“Keok! What?”

Igor looked around.

Something strongly hit his forehead. He opened his character window and checked his HP, and because he was wearing an adamantium headband, his HP did not change.

“Who is it! Where are you!”

Igor looked around.

However, what was worse was that the Byulcho Alliance, hwangryong, Hwahong, and even the guild members of the Czar guild all had the expression that they did not understand what was happening. Among those who looked at Igor, he saw three smiling faces.

“What did you Hong Kongers do? You motherfuckers, I will drain all the mana in your- kwaak!”

Pook-!

Igor’s thigh, who was walking towards Ram Hwajung, twisted sharply. His expression distorted.

“W-what? What did you do?”

It was not Ram Hwajung. It wasn’t Ram Hwayeon either. It wasn’t the dazed kid either.

“Shit! Sasuke! This is a different story!”

Igor did not have the patience to look around and analyze the situation.

An unknown enemy aimed for him, and he took damage. He moved as his instincts told him to.

“K-kwaa-!!”


“Kyakyakya! I…I need blood!” Igor targeted and killed Hwahong and Hwangryong members, and absorbed their blood.

The others were not able to move. As long as they did not know what was currently going on, they would be like a blind person who had just opened his eyes.

Why did Igor suddenly run rampant? Why were the people from the same guild pointing their swords at each other?

They were not able to draw their swords because they did not know who the allies and friends were.

In other words, in the place where more than 1500 people gathered, only a few were able to move and knew about the situation.

“H-hey! Igor! Don’t recklessly-” Sasuke ran towards Igor, however, a sword suddenly struck in front of him, and he had no choice but to protect himself.

“Where are you going, vice-guild master, no, Sasuke-kun.”

“…Tale… Don’t interfere if you don’t know anything. Aren’t you a martial artist who takes the side of justice?”

“Yes. That’s why I intervened. I believe in Kay.”

Tale took a stance.

“Damn it…”

Sasuke was clearly higher-leveled than Tale, however, he was not an easy opponent. Moreover, it was even more so for him, who did not want to prolong this commotion.

He wanted Hyein to sign quickly, but to do so, he had to keep Tale at bay.

“You fool!! Shadow shuriken!”

“Cough, wind shield!”

And the battle between Sasuke and Tale began. Hwahong, hwangryong, and even the guild masters of the Byulcho Alliance naturally did not understand the situation right now.

“Huu, huu, it doesn’t matter if I don’t know their identity. The only thing that I signed was to neutralize the master of Byulcho! I will cut off your arm and get your signature!”

Igor, who sucked people’s blood, changed direction. A shadow appeared in front of Hyein, who was waiting for his death with fear in his eyes.

A shadow fell in front of him.

“N-no way! Holy guard stance!”


Bang-!

It was Kijung who stopped his atrocious acts that no one could resist.

“Kyakyakyat! Are you going to block me with your frozen feet? I will kill you too! Frenzy!”

“It’s different now! 9, 10, 11-”

Shuwaak-!

The sword covered with 『 Blood Jet 』 cut into Kijung with a violent movement.

His appearance was different from before. He was calm, and he even smiled.

Kijung blocked Igors’s attack without taking a single step. The greatsword moved as if it was about to cut Kijung’s shield, however, Kijung held on with all his might and adjusted the angle of .

His defense was so excellent that the difference in size became insignificant.

However, the fundamental difference in strength was the problem. As the sword and shield collided, the difference in strength was clearly revealed.

“-16, 17-”

“Kuhahaha! Until how much will you count? I have to admit, you’ve been holding on quite well against me! This is the first time I got annoyed since Pei Wu! 『 Blood Crush 』!”

Boom–!

Blood exploded from the sword. Kijung had a hard time blocking and could not resist the overwhelming force his shield blown away.

“Cough… 19, 20-”

“You’re still counting? Kuahahaha, I will kill you before 30 seconds are up!”

“No, it is you who will die. 23, 24-”

“What?”

The moment Igor raised his sword, Kijung raised his voice and shouted.

Leeha hyung!!!

Kijung’s voice filled the Amas Canyon.

The reply came from the top of the canyon, and everyone’s gazes focused on Kijung.

Kijung!!!!!

Poof, there was blood on Kijung’s face. However, it wasn’t Kijung’s blood.

“Kuwaak!!” ‘

The blood was from Igor’s shoulder. The Russian berserker’s face distorted.

“Holy Spirit! Templar Knight’s Pledge!”

With the power of the Holy Spirit and Templar’s Oath, Kijung adjusted his posture.

At that moment, Igor’s body shook. Kijung pierced Igor’s side with his sword that was wrapped in brilliance, and Igor dropped his sword.

“This…. What…”

Igor looked at the canyon with a distorted face. He was not able to see the place where the voice came from because it was so far away.

He could only guess that there was someone there because of the white smoke rising.

“Q-quick! Hurry!”

“Kay! Quickly! Before Igor could recover his senses-”

Ram Hwayeon and Hyein shouted at the same time, however, Kijung could not move.

What should he say about the technique that used muscle strength to prevent him from pulling his sword? Even while his blood dripped, Igor’s body, optimized for battle, overwhelmed Kijung.

“Czar- over the canyon- capture him.”

“I-Igor!”

“I am going to finish this guy. Werewolf transformation.”

Werewolf blood began to flow in the berserker’s veins.

An elongated muzzle, and protruding nails. Igor, whose vision had already turned dark red, had no time to spare. He had to kill Kijung and drink his blood.

Igor approached Kijung’s neck and opened his mouth. He had sharp teeth that were enough to rip a person’s skin apart.

“Keok, my sword won’t come out-”

“Kay, let go of the sword! Back off!”

“Ha Leeha-ssi still needs time to reload! Don’t back off!

Block him, just one bit!”

What should he do? Should he let go of his sword and back off, or pull it out and swing? Ram Hwayeon and Hyein cried out, however, it didn’t help Kijung.

Kijung wanted to back off, but he couldn’t. Without a sword, he won’t be able to fight Igor.

The only thing that really helped Kijung was a very small muffled word.

“Freezing.”

Puchitm Pachuchut–…….

Before he knew it, Igor’s muzzle, which was approaching Kijung’s neck, froze.

“Ahh- aahk-”

She used every mana she had in order to buy time! Middle Earth’s genius, Ram Hwajung made an accurate judgment even at this moment.

“Kay! This time! Back off!”

“Hwajung’s magic won’t last long! This is your only chance-”

“No. I don’t need to anymore.”

Kijung shook his head. He could feel Igor’s frozen mouth at the back of his neck. He was trembling in fear, but he couldn’t back down.

“If I back off, Igor will move as well. Then I won’t. I have to prevent him from moving.”

Pachik, pachk-!

The ice that froze Igor’s mouth began to fall off. Even in such an urgent situation, Kijung did not back down.

Rather, Kijung hugged Igor tightly.

“K-Kay, you-”

“It’s okay, Hyein hyung. I believe.”

Kijung smiled at Hyein and Ram Hwayeon.

“I will break it all-! You bastaaard!!”

“No!!!”

Igor opened his mouth and Ram Hwayeon closed her eyes tightly.

At that moment, 24 seconds had passed since Kijung’s sword pierced Igor’s side.

Kijung muttered to himself.

“You can do it, right hyung?”

Bang…… I

Ice powders fell on Kijung’s head like rainwater. Kijung raised his head at the sudden cold.

A bullet pierced Igor’s frozen and hardened face. With more than half of his face shattered, no one would be able to survive.

Igor’s body, which Kijung held, turned gray.

(To be continued…)
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『 You have leveled up. 』

『 You have leveled up. 』

『 You have leveled up. 』

“Uwaaah!”

Leeha shut his eyes as his body shined with a bright light.

It wasn’t just the light. A lot of system notifications blocked his eyes, and it was almost impossible to see what was right in front of him.

Leeha, who knew ‘everything’, waited on the canyon from the time the battle began.

Even before Hwangryong had appeared, he laid down on his stomach while camouflaged, so he had virtually seen all of the battle.

How many times did he want to shoot during that time?

He managed to resist the urge to blow Sasuke’s head off whenever he noticed his movements. Because if he pulled the trigger too soon, the misunderstanding would have escalated rather than resolved.

Most importantly, it wasn’t Sasuke that Leeha was aiming for. Killing him wouldn’t do any good.

In order for the members to understand the situation, he had waited for Agromni Igor to appear.

To let everyone realize that although Hyein ordered it, the contract that Sasuke made with Igor was for the sake of ‘Shinobigumi’.

After that, everything went as planned.

When the first headshot hit Igor’s special headband and bounced off, he was really scared, but…

‘It was successful! Finally!!’

Leeha was the reason Kijung was able to pierce Igor’s side. He also remembered Hwajung froze Igor’s face in order to protect Kijung.

It was a collaboration between Byulcho and Hwahong. And Leeha, he dealt the final blow!


‘I’m happy, but this isn’t the time.’

He had no room to rejoice even though he had killed the 3rd in the world-level ranking.

First, Leeha closed all the system notifications.

The Czar’s guild members were still climbing up the cliff. He wanted to at least incapacitate one of them before the duration of the Delicate Hand Movement was over.

“Huu, huu.”

The only safety equipment they had was a rope tied to each other’s bodies. Nearly 500 members of the Czar guild climbed the cliff at an amazing speed.

‘I did kill 500 people, however, it was because Rising Sun was trash.’ But these were the ones who followed Igor. Leeha would not be able to deal with 500 high-level people alone. Leeha shot as soon as he finished reloading the Hummingbird.

Bang- What Leeha aimed at was not a moving target.

Leeha’s bullet collided against the rock wall. Leeha pulled the trigger in anticipation of the path that they were going to climb.

Rock climbing is not easy. And to some extent, there’s a predetermined path to climb. What would happen if there’s less space to hold onto or step on?’

They couldn’t directly get to where Leeha was located. They had to find better paths in order to climb!

Bang-!

But Russians were Russians.

Despite the constant number of victims falling and dying, they persistently climbed up, and although they were quite a distance away from Leeha, they were able to succeed in climbing up the canyon.

“Igor is dead. Get that guy alive. Imprison him.”

“Yes, sir!”

As the men who were dressed like monks, and wore hooded robes ran towards him, Leeha immediately threw away his camouflage.

“You struggled to get here! Goodbye, you ignorant bears!”

Leeha ran towards the canyon. It was scary, however, it was possible. Haven’t the 888 members of Hwangryong succeeded already?

“Hwaaaa—!”


Leeha threw himself down the cliff without hesitation.

As they saw Leeha jumping down the canyon, the members of Czar had no choice but to stop.

They wanted to chase him right away and tear his limbs, however, now that Igor was dead, they had no chance of winning if they went down again.

“Let’s go back.”

“Aren’t we going to catch him?”

“It’s hopeless. Let everyone return and wait for Igor-nim’s instructions until he connects.”

“Yes sir.”

The Russian Guild tried to capture Leeha’s image even if it was a bit. Their burning eyes were set on Leeha, who struggled in the air.

Leeha fell off the cliff and struggled.

“Kuwaah—!! H-How were they able to survive at this speed!! I trained a few times myself, but this-”

He threw himself off the cliff and unfolded the small cloth, but he never expected the speed at which he would fall.

Were all of the Hwangryong crazy martial artists? Was there something like martial arts that made their body lighter?

“T-There’s a person falling!”

“What happened?? Why did Czar run away?”

The normal guild members, who still weren’t able to understand the situation, murmured as they watched Leeha fall.

“Leeha hyung!!! You will die!! You idiot!”

“How can someone who caught Igor be so stupid?!”

Kijung and Ram Hwayeon cursed at Leeha. He’s the kind of person that always ends up doing well!

“Don’t just shout and do something! Help me!”

“I have no mana.”


At Leeha’s shout, hwajeong sighed.

She was able to gnaw away the mana of the Russian Berserker. Unfortunately, the mana she barely recovered was used up by the freezing skill earlier!

There was no one who could help Leeha. Except for one person.

“I’m glad I didn’t block the space.”

“What? H-Hyein hyung?”

Hyein leaned on his staff and got up. Fine lavender particles gathered into his body.

Kijung was confused for a moment. Was Hyein trying to kill Leeha in this situation? Could it be that he would suddenly attack and create confusion?

“Hold Dimension.”

However, it was a misunderstanding. As Hyein swung his staff, Leeha’s body, which was descending sharply, stopped in the air.

Scrolls could not penetrate the space while it was locked, but Hyein was able to do it with his magic. Hyein slowly lowered Leeha’s body.

“Haa. Haa… I was about to die. T-thank you, Hyein-nim.”

“Ha Leeha…”

“No, this is not the time! Sasuke- Find Sasuke!”

Hyein’s eyes looked wet. Leeha shouted as soon as he landed safely, but it was already too late.

“He ran away the moment Igor died.”

There was a lot of strength in Hwajung’s voice. It was surprising for Ram Hwayeon, who had never heard her sister’s voice like that.

“Hey- what happened, Hyein-nim?”

“What happened in Byulcho, wasn’t it Hyein-nim’s plan to summon Igor? Isn’t this person… the ‘Mage of Clouds’ Ha Leeha…? Why is he here?”

Was the situation deemed to be safe?

The other guild masters of the Byulcho Alliance, Gaeryong of Dragon Knights and Eunchon of Seomgwang, approached Hyein.

Before Kijung knew it, Tale was next to him and was looking at Hyein. He still had the authority of a guild master. If Hyein said anything, Kijung and Tale would do everything they could to stop him.

“I will explain it.”

“Leeha hyung? No, how are you, hyung? Why are you here? Besides, what explanation-”

“Listen first. Listen while I talk, Kijung. All the guild masters and vice-guild masters, please gather! I will tell you who really was behind this war!”

Leeha raised his voice. His bag was filled with information that he had received from Madam Ju, as well as the screenshots he had collected by himself.

In the screenshot, Sasuke was with Mame Hana and Shigematsu. They were at the dyeing workshop along with various camouflage cloaks, in Shinobigumi’s hideout near Candle Castle.

“Surely… Did they steal the guild mark with this?”

They had fast movements, and if they revealed it half-covered with a cloak in the middle of the war, it would look like Hwahong’s guild mark. Just as Kijung made a mistake at the capital?”

“Right. It was probably Sasuke. Didn’t Sasuke also hand me the photo of that unknown ‘person’? He must have taken our photo and doctored it himself.”

“I see… that explains why the movements were somehow familiar…”

Kijung and Tale trembled at Leeha’s words. It meant that Sasuke had made a plan and moved meticulously.

Does that mean that Kijung and Tale were branded as traitors at the safe house due to the thorough preparations for the trap?

“There is a lot more than that. And I have an NPC that can confirm everything which I have said as the truth.”

Leeha showed the information he knew about ‘Shinobigumi’s’ meeting. Sasuke’s organization was a guild that was not registered.

Shinobigumi did not make a guild themselves, they infiltrated other guilds while hiding, or created a paper guild when necessary.

“Daijunana… It means 17th. This is probably the 17th guild that Shinobigumi made to make profits. Its guild master must have been completely different, and a low-leveled person.”

Upon hearing Leeha’s words, all the guild masters’ faces turned pale.

“They might have wanted to take all the profits after the Byulcho Alliance and Hwahong lost their strength from fighting each other…”

“They would have ended the situation by bringing in a third party that had power but needed money, that is, Igor and Czar…”

“And finally, they would have taken over and transferred all the profits into the paper guild…”

In this case, it was similar to a spy that could be seen in the movies. Even Ram Hwayeon was horrified at how precise the Shinobigumi was.

“Was it also because of the Shinobigumi that we suffered from guerilla warfare?”

“That should be true. Neither Byulcho, dragon Knights, nor Seomgwang could have gathered information about Hwahong. Perhaps they are also hiding in Hwahong. Because they found the locations of your safe houses.”

They didn’t know about it. Leeha was only able to get the information related to the war, and he was not able to get detailed information about the agents.

Hearing Leeha, Jachung opened his mouth in fear.

“T-that can’t be the case, guild master-nim! All our guild members belong to the head office-”

“I understand, Jachung. Keep quiet. We’ll talk about it later. So what are you thinking, Ha Leeha-ssi? Now that you’re brought this much information, should we join hands to stop the war?”

“What are you talking about? Igor intervened, but we won-”

“Do you want to continue, dragon Knights? You no longer have Igor and Czar. And you need to deal with my Hwahong and Hwangryong. If we keep going, you might regret it.”

Gaeryong was speechless. Right, they had previously won the battle, but not anymore. Things have turned around 180 degrees.

What would happen, assuming that Pei Wu would arrive soon? The space had not been released yet. The Byulcho Alliance might get annihilated here.

“I also know Byulcho Alliance’s disappointment. And Ram Hwayeon, I also think that this is not the time for the two groups to fight. Nothing good will come if we hastily make moves while we still don’t know the identity or financial power of the Shinobigumi. At least, the current guild battle should end. Before Shinobigumi could make a move we need to get Dale Castle.”

“Then who won?! If you tell us to back off-”

“Calm down, Ram Hwayeon. Everyone here knows that Hwahong doesn’t need to back down. Most importantly, the Byulcho Alliance is responsible. Isn’t it, Hyein?”

Leeha calmed Ram Hwayeon down and spoke. Judging from the remaining power, Hwahong was victorious.

And Guild Master Hyein, the head of the Byulcho Alliance, was responsible for all of this, to begin with.

Not only was it Hyein’s mistake that he raised Sasuke to the rank of vice-guild master and played with him, but it was also Hyein that made a sin against the guild.

Hyein, whose complexion had changed from earlier, let out a big sigh.

“That’s… right. That’s right Phew… Where did it go wrong?”

Every time Leeha presented evidence, Hyein could not help rebuking himself for being deceived by Sasuke.

“Wait! That- Ram Hwayeon-ssi…? Hyein might have been responsible, but what about Dragon Knights and Seomgwang!”

Their faces distorted as they acknowledged the defeat of the Byulcho Alliance.

“So that’s why I want to propose something. This should be good for both Ram Hwayeon-ssi and the Byulcho Alliance.”

“Good?”

“I realize that there is still a lot of work to be done after getting Dale Castle. They will need troops for escorts going through the Dale Castle to the Shazrashian Federation, managing dungeons, mercenaries during siege battles against other guilds, and they will also need troops for normal guild battles. So to speak…”

Leeha cleared his throat.

The war had progressed and deviated from its original path. Shinobigumi might have wanted for either the Byulcho Alliance or Hwahong to collapse.

And Leeha’s suggestion was the best that he could think of to prevent that.

“How about Hwahong hire Dragon Knights and Seomgwang? It’s like how you hired Hwangryong right now. Since they don’t have a ranker like Pei Wu, they would be cheaper than Hwangryong, and the combat power of the two guilds has already been proven as they were able to stand against Hwahong. How about that?”

The guild masters’ eyes widened at Leeha’s suggestion.

(To be continued…)
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There will definitely be losses due to their defeat from the guild war, however, it was not that bad for Dragon Knights and Seomgwang.

In any case, they would still be able to get Dale Castle’s benefits.

From Hwahong’s perspective, as stated by Leeha, they would have a formidable ally for a relatively low price.

It was a win-win proposal, however, Ram Hwayeon shook her head.

“If that was the case, I would have done it sooner. I made a similar suggestion. Who was it that shook it off when I held out my hand?”

“What? Suggestion? I mean… Isn’t it the first time I hear about it?”

“Me too…. I have never heard of it. We were told that Hwahong wanted us to surrender unconditionally…”

Gaeryong and Eunchon slowly shook their heads.

Hyein and Sasuke were the only people who went to negotiate between the Hwahong and the Byulcho Alliance. Because of these mistakes, Hyein was stuck with Sasuke.

“What? I almost lost my mind thinking about it, as expected of Ram Hwayeon. Then you can just agree! Hwahong has the exclusive right to trade in Dale Castle, and hire Dragon Knights and Seomgwang.”

As Leeha smiled, Gaeryong and Eunchon slightly bowed to Ram Hwayeon.

“W-well, if you do that-”

“We thank you.”

To them, it was like their last hope.

If they continued this war as Ram Hwayeon said, they would be completely defeated. The only thing that would remain is their wounds.

Ram Hwayeon also pretended to be reluctant but was surprised by Leeha’s suggestion.

‘If I had said it first- no, I wouldn’t have accepted it even if someone else said it.’

But now? The person who executed Agromni Igor appeared to mediate.


The guild masters of Dragon Knights and Seomgwang lived up to their reputation.

The same went for Ram Hwayeon. The suggestion was reasonable, and since it was Leeha who suggested it, Ram Hwajung and Jachung gladly accepted it as well.

“What do you think?”

Hyein, who listened quietly to Leeha’s mediation proposal, stepped forward. His words and actions were quite surprising.

“I beg you, ram Hwayeonnim. Because all the responsibilities lie with me. I will leave Byulcho. Please take care of my guild members…”

Hyein bowed toward Ram Hwayeon.

It was by no means easy to bow one’s head toward someone who had been cursing you. Additionally, Hyein had been played by Sasuke and he would have felt that it was unfair.

However, Hyein did not run away. He was determined to bear all responsibility.

“Hyein hyung…”

Seeing Hyein like that Kijung felt complicated. A guild master that always put the guild first.

Maybe he messed up because of his greed to do well and raise the guild.

“Kay. Sorry… I won’t ask for forgiveness. But… But, please take care of… Byulcho. I will destroy the contract.”

“Hyung…”

Hyein tore up the 『 contract 』 he made with Kijung. There would be quite a bit of backlash in Byulcho, however, at least it was sorted out.

“This bastard! What the fuck will you do after all this shit? Will you take responsibility?”

“Did you take us for fools? What do you mean the head of the Alliance-”

“I am sorry for both guilds. Even if it’s only a small amount, I will pay you back disposing of my items.”

The guild masters of Dragon Knights and Seomgwang, who had been enraged, also accepted Hyein’s sincere apology.

Of course, it wasn’t a fake apology, they heard the Sage, who was ranked 40th in the world, and in the top 10 of the Korean ranking, was going to dispose of his items.

“Hyein-hyungnim.”


“Please take care of Byulcho, Kay. The position of the guild master…”

“M-me? Why so suddenly?”

“If the guild members knew what Sasuke and I did… they probably won’t reject Tale and Kay. I will tell the guild members myself for the last time.”

“B-but-”

Hyein grabbed Kijung’s shoulder. He lost everything he had built but his eyes burned.

“It’s my request.”

“I… understand. What about hyungnim?”

“…I looked like a fool…. I should pay it back.”

Hyein decided to chase Sasuke. He wanted to repay the humiliation of getting played and making a lot of mistakes by getting swayed like a fool.

Hyein, Kijung, and Tale took care of the Byulcho guild members, at the same time, dragon Knights and Seomgwang accepted the result and scattered all over the canyon to notify their guild members of the new proposal.

The guild war between Hwahong and Byulcho, which had made Fibiel Kingdom tumultuous, truly came to an end.

“Phew…”

“Since when did you know?”

Ram Hwayeon approached Leeha and sat beside him.

“Just recently. When all the puzzles were solved, today’s battle was already set.”

“Where did you get your information?”

“I got some of it from what you said… and I collected some of it. I matched this and that.”

“The ‘NPC’ that you mentioned?”

Only then did Leeha realize why Ram Hwayeon came.

She came to get new information. At least, no one here knew about Holy Grill being the Intelligence Guild of NPCs.


“Haha, you’re such a greedy person. It’s a secret.”

“Hmm~ great…”

“What?”

“You’re great. I am genuinely surprised. You, who had nothing to do with us, came forward for us… In a sense, your relationship with your dongsaeng deteriorated because of us…”

“Haha, let’s just say that I helped you because you’re pretty. How could I ignore it when a beauty is suffering?”

When Ram Hwayeon vaguely spoke, Leeha looked at her and teased.

Hwayeon looked at Leeha for a moment and quickly turned her head. Her face flushed red.

“W-what are you talking about! T-The battle! Right, I mean, I was truly surprised that you caught Igor! Are you in your right mind? Where did you shoot from? more than 350m!”

“More than 350m? I don’t know, but it might have been more than that.”

“F-Four hundred?”

“I’m getting used to this guy, it has become quite useful. And the target was huge too.”

Leeha raised the Hummingbird in one hand.

He didn’t simply level up when he massacred the high orcs. Leeha practiced his snipe skill while waiting for information.

As soon as he discovered Igor and Sasuke’s contract, he started his special snipe training against the giant.

“Isn’t there anything else to fix for Hwahong? Anyway, the guild war is over, aren’t you busy the castle?”

“I’m busy. I will get busier in the future. That’s why I’m here to make an offer.”

“Haha, you really never back down. What’s your offer? If I join your guild now-”

“I will give you the vice-guild master level of authority. In terms of salary, I can give you Pei Wu’s level of treatment.”

“What?!”

Those were words that even made Leeha’s expression, who was about to laugh, harden… Vice-guild master level? Pei Wu level? He could get treated like the best martial artist in the world.

It was only natural for Ram Hwayeon to make such a suggestion.

People who were simply good at fighting were common in Middle Earth. There are probably dozens of people gathered in the canyon that could beat Leeha in a melee battle.

However, it was not what Hwayeon wanted.

She did not only want Leeha’s micromanagement, but also his macro-management such as situational judgment and information processing capabilities.

No, even if he did not have that, Ram Hwayeon still wanted him.

She wanted to keep him to herself.

“Cough, you’re a genius making people’s hearts tremble. However, it’s still no. Kijung will be having a hard time taking care of Byulcho for the time being, and I think he needs some help.”

“Fufu, it’s because of your dongsaeng again? But you’re not going to join Byulcho, are you?”

“Well… Probably. If I belong to an organization, I won’t be able to do what I want. I might have to fight someone I don’t want to fight.”

Hearing Leeha’s words, Ram Hwayeon laughed. While he is good at judging the situation, at times like this, he’s quite blunt and neutral with his words.

“I know it well, but keep this in mind, Ha Leeha-ssi. I am saying this to you because I think I know Middle Earth now.”

“What?”

“To remain neutral in war is to be the enemy of the victor and loser. No matter how fair you are, in the end, you’re a thorn to their eyes. Neither Hwahong nor Byulcho thinks so now, but do you know what would happen if things went wrong?”

Leeha nodded.

If the information from Madam Ju was late, or if it had not been for Leeha’s participation. There could have been a situation where both Hwahong and Byulcho listened to the traitor’s words. Leeha also knew .

“In other words, you’re also saying that I could be a friend to both the winner and the loser if I stay neutral, right? Right?”

“Puhahaha! As expected! I like your personality, Ha Leeha. However, one day, your personality might hold you back.”

“You’re not trying to tell me to quietly come to Hwahong, are you? Haha. You’re an eloquent speaker after all.”

“Hmph, there’s nothing I can do if you think like that. But I’m serious Ha Leeha-ssi, I want you.”

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha seriously with her shining eyes. Leeha, who was teasing her, was taken aback.

“Y-you’re really good at saying such passionate words! If I become a member of your guild, can’t you give me a stake in Dale Castle? Can you tie me with something like that? Haha, like a fateful community. 1%-”

“That makes sense too. Good. I’ll give you 10%.”

“W-Whaaat?”

“If I can keep my relationship with you, 10% would be cheap. But wouldn’t it have been better if you joined our guild and be treated as a vice-guild master?”

“Wow… aren’t you really crazy?”

“No, my eyes are correct. Because I never make a losing investment. Isn’t that right, hwajeong?”

“Yes. Paying that cheap for oppa is quite good.”

Ram Hwajung, who was sitting beside Ram Hwayeon, suddenly smiled.

“‘Cheap, ‘oppa’? those words not quite right?”

Leeha was taken aback. It was because of Ram Hwayeon’s words, and Ram Hwajung’s cool consent.

The income from Dale Castle could not be estimated. But 10%…

It was so huge that Leeha, who casually threw the 1% as a joke, was rather taken aback. No, maybe it was just a joke.

“Wait a minute. Ram bi-, no, Ram Hwayeon-nim. You can’t just take my hyung like that.”

“Kijung!”

Kijung, who had talked to the Byulcho Guild to some extent, approached Leeha.

It was their first conversation since they parted on Kunigo Hill, but there was no awkwardness between them.

“I’m sorry, hyung. Even though I knew you weren’t like that… I made a mistake.”

“You’re cheesy. So why didn’t you trust me and focused on raising your level? Don’t you know that good things happen when you listen to your hyung?”

“Thank you so much Leeha hyung.”

Both Leeha and Kijung, who faced each other, felt the tip of their nose itch. They both thought they were lucky they didn’t cry.

“Thank you? You punk. Is it all because of you?! I had to spend every money I had and I wasn’t able to save even a single penny.”

“Can’t you get money out of this? It’s hyung’s. I picked it up earlier.”

“…Huh?! This?”

He did not ask for money in the first place. Kijung seriously offered something when Leeha was just trying to tease him.

“It’s an item that Igor dropped.”

“K-Kijung…!”

Kijung handed over a black necklace. Obviously, Kijung and Ram Hwajung contributed in capturing Igor, however, they did not think it was the case.

Because Igor got killed by Leeha. And because of that, the war ended.

The only person who deserved it was Leeha.

“Haha, I am here to give you this. And Ram Hwayeon, thank you so much for accepting the mediation proposal.”

(To be continued…)
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If she wanted to, she could have wiped out all of them and secured victory in the guild war.

Everyone understood the words Kijung had not spoken.

“Because I don’t want to fight a terrifying enemy like Byulcho again. It’s also because there’s a person saying good things about you. I want to be on the same side you next time.”

Ram Hwayeon glanced at Leeha, shrugged her shoulder, and held out her hand toward Kijung.

One could tell that she really was the leader of Hwahong.

Although they got played by Sasuke big time, one could tell that their tactics, strategies, and battles were real.

Kijung shook her hand without saying a word.

Today was the birth of the guild which acquired the first commercial monopoly rights in the Fibiel kingdom.

At the same time, it was the day ‘Ha Leeha’ spread his name all over the world.

“Hey…did you get all of it?”

“Yes, sunbae… It was amazing.”

The two men, who had been hiding all the way over the canyon, felt chills run over their bodies. Their faces trembled with excitement as they watched the war.

“Well, don’t we have to use a nickname? This, it’s a waste to spread this big event! The person who killed Igor, do you have any modifiers we could call him?”

“I don’t know because I didn’t hear their conversation, it’s probably Ha Leeha. The Mage of Clouds who destroyed the Rising Sun! Can we use that? The Mage of Clouds ended the war!”

“Mage of Clouds- no, its impact is weak. This bastard, you work on broadcasting but you don’t know how to make a headline? Think of a nickname!”

“Hmm, even if you say that…How about modern-day Robin Hood, or William Tell?”

“Those are archers! He uses a gun!”

The sunbae bonked his hubae’s head.


“Aack! Ah! Long ago! there an opera? a novel? I think there was!”

“What?”

A short word came out of the hubae’s mouth, a title that was attached to Leeha’s name and spread throughout the television, internet, and middle earth.

『 Arcane Sniper 』.”

The fame of the Marksman Ha Leeha spread instantly.

It was Friday afternoon when the war ended. It was no wonder that Middle Earth buzzed with the news that Hwahong made a remarkable improvement to Dale Castle. However, soon reality was just as tumultuous as that.

It was because, in just one day, many cable TV sports channels had organized planned programs.

“Kek. I-It’s true.”

– Isn’t it? Is it? I got a call from a guild member too. But it wasn’t only aired in Korea!

“Then?”

– Did you say it aired in the U. S. and Europe as well? They are currently looking for hyung. I was careful not to be photographed as much as possible, but how did this happen…

Kijung’s guilds strength was revealed to the world, so he didn’t particularly have a bright voice.

However, it was an exciting event for Leeha, who was not able to enjoy his performance during his battle with the Rising Sun.

“America… Europe… I haven’t even gone to Jeju Island even though I’m this old.”

– Haha, anyway, they kept showing you in other shows as well. In the war, Hwahong and us were ignored, why do you think you got all the spotlights?

“Did I do it to get famous! I did it to protect you-”

– Hyung, I know. I’m just trying to say thank you. I have to log in again. I’m very tired of organizing the guild, see you later!

Even after Kijung hung up the phone, Leeha’s eyes were fixed on the television.

Because even people from the other side of the Pacific admired the broadcast.

The high-definition footage showed everything that happened in the war, however, it stopped in the middle.


It was a way for the narrators and casters to explain in detail how the battle had been fought, what magic was used, and how this effect would later occur.

“In the scene, as you see now, you could say that the situation of the war had changed dramatically. Did Sage Hyein cast it?”

“Yes.

‘Enforce Teleport’ is magic that could forcibly move the target. From here, Pei Wu was teleported to the Shazrasion Federation, effectively leaving the battlefield.”

“Oh, indeed. So you mean that the Byulcho Alliance deliberately took a defensive stance until Pei Wu appeared? To weaken Hwahong’s power?”

“You could say that. There were four main scenes in the battle of Amas Canyon, this is one of them.”

“In fact, of those four main scenes, isn’t what the viewers are most curious about are Ram Hwajung’s Arctic Tornado, Hyein’s Enforce Teleport, and Agromni Igor eating the blood golem?”

“Yes. The three of them are very famous users, so one could assume that they each have their own secret weapon. B.u.t! The appearance of the user Ha Leeha is simply a mystery.”

The video of the war changed.

What was reflected on the screen was Igor, who was turning into a werewolf, and Kijung held Igor tightly.

And after a while, Igor’s face froze-! And then it got destroyed. There the screen stopped again.

“Now, this is the scene. Where the hell did he attack? I can’t believe it even if I see it.”

“Once on the screen, this point, next to this rock above the canyon. If you look closely, you can see something silvery gray sticking out from it, right?”

The narrator drew a red circle at the spot where Leeha was hiding, and the pixels on the screen were broken and the magnification continued. Leeha’s face and the Hummingbird were caught on the screen.

The caster tilted his head in surprise and chuckled.

“H there… haa… really. He shot at that distance and hit Igor’s face. Is that possible? I also joined the military, but getting this right is-”

That’s why he got that nickname. A program was used to measure and the result was 407m. The nickname 『 Arcane Sniper 』 is not wasted at all.”

“Four hundred and seven meters… It’s amazing. I couldn’t believe that the battle that made Fibiel Kingdom tumultuous ended from a shot taken 407m away. I can’t think of anything other than that it’s really cool.”

“Yes. Besides, the fact that Ha Leeha is not a member of the guilds related to the war meant that he was hunting rankers as an outsider.”

“As expected.”


“No!! What do you mean hunting ranker! Don’t tie me with those outsiders! I am not an outsider!”

Leeha yelled at the television, but he couldn’t be heard. Judging by only watching the war video, it can only be seen that way. He exhaled a sigh and turned on the T. V..

“This really… The internet is also messed up.”

Of course, it wasn’t because of Leeha, but because of the grandeur of the war.

The video uploaded on YTube reached 50 million views within 24 hours…

“It was a really huge war.”

In addition, Leeha received emails requesting for an interview to find out how he did it.

Today in Middle Earth’s invitation was grandly titled 『 A special conversation with an outsider 』. Leeha was already confirmed as an outsider in Middle Earth.

‘The more they see my face, the harder it is to hunt… No interview, no, I just don’t have to reply. They are not sure it’s my e-mail.’

Of course, he was happy. It was natural that he felt good.

Becoming famous. People cheering and calling for one’s name. There was even an article saying that they cried while watching the video, how could he not feel good.

Apart from that, Leeha tried to suppress his excitement.

Becoming famous wasn’t always a good thing. As there are always two sides of the coin.

“Kwwaaaa, okay! Let’s connect once more. I haven’t been able to get a good look at the item and my stats.”

After the battle was over, he logged out, and this is the first time he would log in again. Leeha was also excited.

‘Hehe, agromni Igor’s Necklace…”

How good could it be?

—

“I’m sorry, oka-san. The plan to swallow Dale Castle failed-”

“It’s okay. Maybe we were too greedy from the start.”

“Yes.”

Sasuke shook his head and bowed. It wasn’t the place where Rising Sun’s Kyokujitsu had come before. The secret place had changed again and Shinobigumi’s Oka-san and Sasuke were having a conversation.

“More important than that is balance. There should have been a Byulcho Alliance that was a force to keep Hwahong in check so that they could not become a large force… If the two guilds were to hold hands.”

Balance was essential when dealing with information.

That way, one could maximize profits by walking a tightrope in the middle, so if either became overwhelmingly large, ‘information’ would become meaningless.

Especially from the point of view of a guild that mainly dealt with players’ information.

“I-I will look for a way. If we want to prevent Hwahong’s power to grow in Fibiel Kingdom like this, we have to recruit another guild-”

“Hmm, there’s no need for Sasuke-kun to go out because we already made contact with the Minis and Shazrashian Federation.”

“Are you talking about players from other countries?”

“Is it necessary to keep them in check in the same country?”

Sasuke’s spine tingled. How big and wide was the group he belonged to? Does it mean that they have reached beyond the Fibiel Kingdom?

“Ah, and Ha Leeha… Should I take care of him? If you want to catch him, we can do it within the day.”

“It’s okay. Just leave him alone.”

“What? But he’s already too big. If we wait any longer-”

“There are a lot of people aiming for Ha Leeha besides us. Leave Leeha to them for the time being, and Sasuke-kun, please go to the Minis Kingdom.”

“Yes!”

Were there a lot of people aiming for Ha Leeha? He didn’t want to ask who they were, and if he couldn’t ask, then that would be it. Sasuke immediately stood up to follow instructions, and at the spot he left, oka-san looked at the crystal ball and smiled.

“ hand will reach first. No… hand should I reach first…?”

In the crystal ball, dozens of users with the same clothes and had the same sizes were visible.

All of them wore hoods and monk-like robes. They were users of the Russian Guild, Czar, who participated in the canyon war together with Igor.

—

The corridor was wide enough for dozens of people to pass through at the same time. As if it was not a place made for humans in the first place, the high and wide passageway was full of cracks.

“Grrrrr..”

“Grr, grrrr…!”

The monster that roamed around such a place was the armored saber tiger.

The shell made of iron armor made a rattling noise every movement, but their movements were more agile than normal saber tigers.

Its fangs could easily surpass a human weapon and could easily tear players’ skins.

“Puguuuu–!”

“Whoa whoah-!”

And a two-headed ogre carried an armored saber tiger shoulder.

It had lost almost all of its intelligence and was almost unable to communicate even with its heads attached to its body, but in return, it had gained overwhelming physical abilities.

It was a monster that even a formidable party of five reluctant to fight, but right now, there was only one person standing in front of it.

Bright yellow hair brushed with pomade oil. White skin on a square chin. However, the player’s eyes were as cold as a monster’s.

“…Isn’t this a laboratory? Wrong.”

“Puoo!! Kuooo-!”

“Hoong, hoong!”

“ can’t communicate, it’s not needed.”

The pomade user ignored the monster and moved on. Even if it didn’t understand words, the twin-headed ogre knew that it was being ignored.

“Kuwaang!!”

“Kyaooo!”

“Kuwaaaa-”

(To be continued…)
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Three monsters rushed at the same time. The user without even a shield had no choice. He would either be torn to death or burst to death!

However, the user did not panic. He dodged the armored saber tiger’s leap attack and combined what was in his hands into one .

Boom-!

He lowered his posture to avoid the twin-headed ogre’s club, but his expression did not change. He had mechanical movement and expression as he tightened the bolts and screws.

“Kyaaaah-?!”

When he finished his work, he lifted a long weapon that was combined into one.

It looked like a gun at first glance, but no one would think it was a gun. A gun as tall as an adult male, and as thick as a troll’s thigh.

The posture he made was different from a gun in the first place.

Rather than lifting it up and pointing it at the opponent, it was like a rock band guitarist holding a guitar, with his arms hanging.

Two armored saber tigers stared at each other, and behind them, the twin-headed ogre snorted.

“Pukkuu–!”

“Roaar!”

“Roar!”

The man did not miss the moment the three monsters were about to turn towards him again, and the moment they were lined up.

“Bye.”

The man tightened his thighs and calves and pulled the trigger.

A tremendous blew the dust in the passageway. There was also a recoil that made one worry he would suffer a shock, however, the man’s body did not move.

The man disassembled the weapon and put it in his bag. He took out his map, frowned, and marked a spot with an x.


“If it’s not here, then I should follow the rumors. There’s no way that guy could have gotten it…”

The man sighed for a moment. There were too few hints to follow the traces of the quest.

『 Arcane Sniper 』…”

The man murmured and back down the passage.

Two armored saber tigers and a twin-headed ogre stood in a row in front of him, and they had large holes in their bodies.

It wasn’t a gun he shot. It should rather be called a cannon.

—

“As expected, I like this side better.”

Leeha rubbed his knees and smiled. He couldn’t help but like Middle Earth more than reality whenever he moved his lower body.

“I thought they would send me a whisper, but that wasn’t the case.”

Then he laughed out loud.

He thought there would be all sorts of chaos similar to the Rising Sun case as soon as he logged in. Contrary to his rise in fame, no one looked for Leeha.

The person who stood out the most was Leeha, however, he was not the one who received the most benefits. It was a pleasant surprise that no one looked for him.

“Haha, this is great. So first off~ let’s check the achievements.”

Leeha opened his notification window. The things he wasn’t able to see when he was dealing with the guild members of Czar. The first achievement he expected was, again, a junction.

『 Achievement: The sound was heard after 1 second (A-) 』

Congratulations! You hit the target 400m away. You were able to hit the target at a distance greater than the speed of sound?! To your enemies, you are like a silent reaper.

Effect : Strength +5, agility +11

You are the second registrant of the achievement 『 The sound was heard after 1 second 』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.


Effect : Strength +10, agility +22

‘Yes!! Another A-class! I’m the second! What used to be three people had now decreased. Who was the one who fell off? Who else is left?’

The joy of finally reaching this point spread through Leeha’s body.

He also got the 300m achievement while he was catching high orcs. 5 strength and 10 agility, and as the third registrant, he was inducted into the Hall of Fame and received an additional 10 strength and 20 agility.

‘Up until then, there were three people. but for 400, there were only 2…

According to Leeha’s speculation, there were only the Next Generation of the Three Musketeers. He had never heard a rumor that someone from the archer class could hit from such a long distance.

In other words, up to 300m, Leeha thought that the ones’ who got it was himself, Kidd, and the one who got the 『 Penetrate 』 attribute, who was still unknown. nly after 400m that a person was dropped.

‘Did a person just drop? Phew, anyway. They are great people.’

The normal range of a musketeer was around 350m, so how was one able to get to 400m? Leeha had his snipe skill. But what about the others?

‘Do ‘Rapid fire’ and ‘Penetrate’ have 『 Snipe 』 skill? Then ‘Accuracy’ would not be special would it?’

If one attribute had a skill that the other attributes did not have, it would stand out, however, if everyone had 『 Snipe 』 skill, the ‘Accuracy’ attribute would not stand out…. Leeha grumbled, however, he had no way of checking it right now.

“Most importantly, I should check the achievements.”

The achievements Leeha had never seen before caught his eyes.

『 Achievement: Ruler of PvP 』! Congratulations! You have won a battle with a user that is 40 levels higher than you. Your fame has begun to spread. Towards the Legend of PvP!

Effect: 15 Stat points

『 Achievement: Legend of PvP (A-) 』

Congratulations! You have won a battle with a user 50 levels higher than you! What the hell did you use? There’s only one thing left, God of PvP. ’

Effect: 13 Stat points

You are the second registrant of the 『 Legend of PVP 』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.


Effect: 32 stat points

“Hmm… This, this is crazy. All that’s left is PvP God. Will it give me 40 stat points? This is really amazing…”

Leeha was tongue-tied at the stat points, level requirement, as well as the description of the achievement.

‘But Igor is more than 100 levels higher than me- ah, it’s because I didn’t kill him alone.’

The Leeha dealt the last hit, but Kijung and Ram Hwajung attacked Igor once.

It meant that the achievement was from killing Czar’s guild members.

At that time, Leeha was already over level 100, which meant that Czar’s guild members had also passed level 140 and 150.

‘If I had caught Igor alone… does that mean I could have gotten the PvP God? Haha, there must have been more than 100 levels of difference, right?!’

Although he did not have any PvP related achievements anymore, there was an achievement related to Igor.

Igor always came up whenever various media or internet communities talked about Leeha!

『 Achievement: Ranker Hunter (TopW) – 3rd place, “Agromni Igor” (A) 』

Congratulations! You killed the 3rd of Middle Earth’s top 10 highest level users. I hope you didn’t kill him by luck. He might come back to steal the achievement of ‘Ranker Hunter’! Please be careful!

Effect: 34 temporary stat points (will be recovered when you get killed by the ranker you hunted).

(This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame.)

“Wow!”

A-class is a huge achievement. But it is A?

Leeha couldn’t help but be surprised by the power and fame of Agromni Igor.

Because Middle Earth’s system recognized that Igor’s value was higher than 400m snipers, the massacre of 500 people, or victory in PvP with 50 level difference.

‘Besides, what is this? He will come to steal it? So it was given as a temporary stats?’

Thanks to the explanation and effect of the achievement, he was able to understand quickly. The effect of achievements by killing rankers was only temporary. If one was killed by the ranker one killed, one would lose the stat points received from the achievement.

In other words, it could be said that an outsider that killed a ranker had an irreversible relationship with the ranker from then on.

‘T-they should have told me about this sooner! I didn’t like the crazy Russian bastard, but-’

‘Gulp, maybe Igor was now looking for me with his chainsaw-like sword?

Wouldn’t he grind his teeth while looking for me in order to take away the stat points I received?’

‘No, I must have done some kind of damage to the ranker for them to get revenge. It’s giving me an advantage, not a disadvantage to rankers… right? Please!’

It was Middle Earth. A place where one didn’t know what kind of trouble they would encounter. Leeha suddenly felt chills.

‘For the time being, I have to be careful- huh? What, what, what is this?’

When he thought it was over, another notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『 Achievement: The true master of Dale Castle (A) 』

Congratulations! You have acquired 10% share of exclusive commercial rights in Fibiel Kingdom’s Dale Castle. The residents of Dale Castle look forward to helping you further develop your estate.

Effect: Constitution +10, mind +7, intimacy with NPCs of Dale Castle increased by 50%, all facilities in Dale Castle could be used, monthly income based on equity.

(This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame.)

“Really? She really gave it to me?”

It was absurd. He was only joking when he said it to Ram Hwayeon.

She told Leeha she would give him 10% when he asked for 1%, as expected, she is a generous person…Leeha did not expect her to really give him a 10% share.

‘It was made into an achievement, it is even A-class… I guess it is enforced by the system.’

Leeha could see how strong Ram Hwayeon’s influence was. Leeha knew that Hwahong had 300 members.

However, did it mean that the guild members supported Ram Hwayeon enough to give 10% to an individual who was not a guild member?

‘Well, weren’t they all from the same company? It was natural that they did not resist. They are indeed a global corporation! Hehe.’

At the same time, Leeha could understand Ram Hwayeon’s intention.

Although she was not able to get him to the Hwahong guild, if they got entangled this way, Leeha would not have any choice but to cooperate with Hwahong to some extent.

‘I don’t know much about settlement income but…she gave me the right and imposed some invisible obligations at the same time. Phew, she really is a fox.’

What if one didn’t lose money? When other guilds attacked Dale Castle, or when they started investing for the monopoly of the commercial activity, it meant that Leeha had to stop them.

“Wait… I can use all the available facilities?”

What was the reason why the Hwahong and Byulcho alliance aimed for Dale Castle? Dale Castle had three dungeons.

And one of them was appropriate for users around level 130. Before Leeha went to Amas Canyon, he was level 103.

“Hehe, character window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 118 (62%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 37

HP: 3,980 / MP: 940

Stats: Strength: 118 (+88)

Agility: 859 (+242)

Intelligence: 103 (+52)

Constitution: 145 (+52)

Mind: 40 (+30)

Remaining Stat points: 213

But now, he was level 118. It meant that his level rose 15 times after killing Igor.

What should he do to the huge amount of stat points he gained, compared to the 15 levels that rose?

“Two hundred thirteen… what… ah, ahahahaha.”

It was so ridiculous that it made him laugh out loud.

He killed Igor, and Hwahong became the de facto castellan of Dale Castle, but those were different stories. It was to the extent that his growth literally gave him goosebumps.

‘Should I increase my agility to 1000? I don’t know what stats I would need later…”

(To be continued…)
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Leeha decided to approach cautiously.

Such good fortune and leveling up won’t happen again, so Leeha couldn’t use all of the available stat points.

Most importantly, what awaits Leeha was 『 Brown Bess 』. He will soon get the musket used by one of the legendary Three Musketeers, so it would be unfortunate to leave it in the warehouse if his stats did not fit.

Stats: Strength: 118 (+88)

Agility: 1,000 (+242)

Intellligence: 103 (+52)

Constitution: 145 (+52)

Mind: 40 (+30)

Remaining stat points: 72

‘There’s still 72 left? That’s equivalent to 14 levels. Wow…’

If the members of Czar or Igor saw Leeha’s stats, they might complain. It was unbelievable considering he was only at early level 100s.

“Let’s start with Dale Castle.”

Leeha held his musket, with a smile on his face. A city he had a stake in! What if he leveled up in the dungeon there?!

“He, hehe, hehehe.”

“What, what, this person?”

“Look out. He might be a psychopath.”

With their heads bowed, they avoided Leeha’s gaze. Whether they liked it or not, Leeha did not hide his joy.


“Good- uh!!! Before that~! I need to buy more gunpowder.”

The days when Leeha grumbled at the 4 copper gunpowder seemed so far away. Leeha, who opened his bag, could not help but be surprised again.

Because the necklace that gave off a black light, which Leeha had forgotten due to the shock of his stats, was shown in his bag again.

“That’s right, Igor’s necklace…Oh, should I send a thank you letter to Igor? Hehe.”

Leeha picked up the necklace.

『 Heroic Necklace with Dark Elf Essence 』

Defense: 320

Effect: Strength +8, agility +12, skill: Forbidden Rage can be used, dark Magic Resistance +50%

Requirement: –

Description: A necklace made by condensing Dark Elves’ magical power. Unable to come out into the world of light they presented this necklace to the agent who would destroy all wood elves on their behalf.

Additional Effect: Intimacy with Dark Elves +100%, intimacy with Wood Elves NPCs -50%

‘Hero… Class…’

Hero was a level higher than rare. It was also an item related to a specific NPC race!

‘Besides, 100% intimacy with just one item? What about the 50% Dark Magic Resistance! That’s a complete scam’

This is the item of a special ranker? Even if there were hundreds or thousands of warlocks or dark mages, they wouldn’t be able to deal with Igor. There’s also the 320 defense…

‘I think the shield that came out of the Brass Golem had 400. This necklace has 320…’

Now that I saw this, I’m embarrassed. How much would it have been if all the defense power of the items Igor was wearing added up?

‘How did I catch that monster? If it wasn’t for Ram Hwajung’s magic he would have been able to kill everyone there, with blood even dripping from his mouth.’

Leeha, who felt a renewed fear of Igor, trembled. Of course, that trembling was also mixed with joy and excitement.

Because he would be able to use one of those terrifying items for himself from now on.


“Goodbye, Kobold Chieftain Necklace. Thank you for everything.”

Leeha immediately removed the bone necklace and equipped the black necklace.

『 Skill: Forbidden Rage acquired. 』

‘This skill. What is this?’

And Leeha checked the newly created skill.

『 Forbidden Rage 』

Description: Brings the wrath of a dark elf to kill a target, even at the cost of one’s life.

Effect: Increase attack power by 20% until dispelled (reduce total HP by 40%)

Mana: 300

Cooldown: 24 hours

It was a skill that had neither level nor grade. A skill that sacrificed 40% of total health and increased attack power by 20%.

‘As expected of Middle Earth, the exchange ratio is 1:2, but… isn’t this incredible?! What does 20% attack power mean… what in dog’s name is that!’

Leeha recalled Igor’s fighting style. Igor was a warrior who used blood.

He sacrifices his blood in order to increase his attack power, and absorbs the blood of those he hunts.

‘Its synergy with this skill is very good.’

40% reduction in total health is a huge loss… maybe he used the skill in the last battle. Because without Pei Wu, there would have been no one who could pose a threat to him on the battlefield.

‘It probably is true. That must have been why he got killed so easily.’

Even if someone with a ranged job acquired this skill it could not be used carelessly.

Ranged users already have very low health, what would happen if their total health was reduced by 40%? Unless they were someone who had a risky playstyle, this item would have been auctioned by users who value stability… wasn’t true for Leeha.

“Musketeers aren’t like that anyway.”


They were determined to die if they can’t kill their target in one shot. The item suits him well.

He didn’t know how much gold it was, however, Leeha decided not to sell it.

‘If I used this skill, my HP would drop to 2400, but that’s nothing.’

Leeha’s current health was 3,980. The handicap was so severe that his vision darkened, however, Leeha decided to endure.

“Forbidden Rage.”

『 Skill- Forbidden Rage has been used. 』

『 Total health has been reduced by 40%. 』

『 Attack power has increased by 20%. 』

“Phew…”

An exhilarating feeling ran over his body. Although his HP had been reduced, it did not feel like he lost his strength. Like the word ‘Rage’ suggested, he felt boiling inside.

“Let’s go.”

Leeha grabbed Hummingbird and headed out of the capital.

Hummingbird’s attack power alone was 4,760, with the skill activated, it was now 5,712. Leeha was not afraid of anything.

“I’m a level 57 tanker! I’m looking for a party! I have a ticket! Invite me!”

“We are looking for a magician with an Intelligence of 750 or higher! We currently have four people~ We’ll test you if you want to join!”

“Healer-nim, please come! Please! Sir!! Please!! If you’re level 150 we will let you join unconditionally!”

Seeing the people all over the stronghold, Leeha felt a little bit cramped. It had more people than Berfort, the most popular city near Sentinel Mountains.

Users at various levels were preparing to hunt.

“Waa…In a place like this, there is no way one can’t have money.”

Leeha, who had been involved in the fight to get this place, visited for the first time. Does it mean that I would get some of the money these people spend here?

“Anyway, she’s a great girl. Hahaha, and I’m great as well…10% of that as an income is always welcome!”

He couldn’t help but laugh.

Leeha walked around in a wild manner as he naturally saw the crowded people as his money makers.

“I’m looking for a magician! Level 130 or higher mag- ack!”

“Ah, this. I’m sorry.”

Like that, the person got his feet stepped on while the other person was distracted. The player who got stepped on looked down and made an exaggerated reaction.

“What? wahh, my feet hurt!”

The assimilation rate was unknown, but it couldn’t have hurt that much. How could a person come back when they get killed if they have such a reaction to getting stepped on?

However, Leeha couldn’t argue. Either way, it was his fault. It was fortunate that it was not recognized as PK.

“I’m sorry-”

“Huh? S-s-s-sir?!”

“What?”

The expression of the player, who had been staring at Leeha, gradually loosened. His eyes widened, and his mouth opened. His nostrils flared.

“Ha Leeha!! You’re Ha Leeha right?! The Marksman, Ha Leeha!!! T-this is the silver gun!”

The noisy Dale Castle square became quiet in an instant.

Not only did the constant shouting disappear, but even the moving players stopped their feet. All their eyes focused on one place. Leeha’s eyes rolled round and round.

“Whoah! This is amazing! It’s Ha Leeha!!”

“Sir! Sir! What’s that gun? Is that the gun that caught Igor? How much attack power does it have?”

“Wow, fuck! I need to take a screenshot. Ha Leeha-nim! Please look here! The marksman!!”

“What did you get for killing Igor? Did he drop his sword? How much was that bastard’s sword?”

“Sir! What’s your relationship with Ram Hwayeon? Are you dating?”

It’s different from the quiet capital. This is Dale Castle.

The players who stopped by here were at least interested in the guild who would own the castle, and they would inevitably know about Leeha.

“H-hold on! Aack! Don’t push!” People flooded in like water as if the place where Leeha was located was a drain.

Leeha found it difficult to resist as words were thrown at him, and random friend requests appeared in front of him.

“K-kuwaaah- W-where, where are you touching! Where are you touching me!”

Leeha’s body was getting pressed as if he was about to get crushed.

The users touched Leeha’s cheeks, arms and lower body(?) with such determination that it seemed like touching him would grant them a level. It was then that a huge explosion was heard.

Hyoooo- Bang!

“Hmm?”

“Guard!”

Everyone back off! Everyone back off!

Armored NPCs floated in the air.

Although not at the level of Sacred Knights, the Defense Knights protecting the castle had the skill to protect it.

It was also the reason why Hwahong and Byulcho Alliance chose it instead of a normal city. Unlike the city’s security forces, the castle was inhabited by knights. It had a higher level of power in terms of defense.

“Those who cause confusion in Dale Castle would not be forgiven. Everyone back away!”

The users who surrounded Leeha backed away.

“Are you Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Ah… Yes. I am.”

“Please follow me. Jachung-nim is waiting for you.”

“What? Waah-! What, don’t you have any intimacy with me? Besides, if it’s Jachung-”

Before Leeha could finish speaking, one of the knights grabbed him and flew in the air. Due to a Dale Castle-related achievement, he had 50% increased intimacy with its NPCs, however, he was treated harshly!

Whether Leeha grumbled or not, the knights of Dale Castle just headed for the castle.

“Cough, I wanted to add him as a friend.”

“But why did they take him to the castle?”

“Isn’t it true that he’s dating the castellan?”

“Castellan? Ram Hwayeon-nim? Hey, that’s ridiculous. No… really?”

A new gossip was made in the place where Leeha disappeared.

(To be continued…)
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The place he had been moved to was a large yard that was likely to be used as Dale Castle’s dance hall or for events.

“I have brought him, Jachung-nim.”

“Ohh, thank you. Thank you for your effort.”

“It was nothing. Then.”

The Dale Castle knights bowed to Jachung and headed for the castle gate. Leeha was taken aback by their reaction. Usually, they say something.

“The Dale Castle Knights don’t seem to have anything to do with intimacy. They are not NPCs who give out quests, but literally Dale Castle’s NPC guards.”

“Ah, yes.”

As if reading Leeha’s thoughts, Jachung spoke.

Leeha was greeted by a middle-aged man wearing light armor in his 40s, mid-40s or maybe early 40s? Leeha instantly scanned the man who was standing in an upright manner in front of him. He was on the younger side considering he held a high position in the Ram Long group. Leeha looked at Jachung, and Jachung looked at him as well. Then he took out a piece of paper, held it and spoke.

“Ha Leeha, nationality: Korean, age: 30 years old. The appearance is almost identical to the current character… Is that right?”

“What? What?”

“What is your illness? Do you have any family history of genetic disease?”

“W-what are you talking about?”

Jachung asked without hesitation. Even though Leeha did not answer, Jachung quickly filled out the checklist after seeing Leeha’s reaction. For Leeha, it was just absurd. What was this? all of a sudden?

“It’s just an investigation. It says here that you ‘were’ a member of the Korean army, what are you doing now?”

Jachung tilted his head and looked at Leeha. His expression was similar to a teacher conducting a survey or a human resource manager interviewing a new employee.

When Leeha did not speak, Jachung nodded and continued speaking to himself.


“I see. You seem to make a living from Middle Earth. Hmm, the price of gold is stable now, but in fact, it is still true that it is somewhat burdensome to make a living here. Even the best game in the world would meet its end…but anyway, it’s good. Where did you go to college? What is your major?”

“W-wait! Investigation? Do I have any obligation to tell you? Besides, what are those materials? Did you do a background check on me?”

Leeha was more curious about why Jachung was curious than the fact that knew his details.

Of course, he felt bad. Did they do a background check without telling him?

However, even after Leeha asked, Jachung’s expression did not change.

“Hmm? Background investigation? It’s only natural if you want to become a member of the Ram Long group.”

“Member? It’s not the Hwahong guild, but the Ram Long group? But I did not apply to that company, did I?”

Ram Long group? He did not even send his resume, so what was he talking about? When Leeha showed signs of displeasure, Jachung smiled strangely.

“Oh, so! You didn’t know yet?”

“No, about what? What do I need to know?”

“Hmm. Well. In any case, Ha Leeha-nim won’t be losing anything. Whether it’s Ram Hwayeon-nim or Ram Hwajung-nim, I wanted to know-”

“Shut your mouth, Jachung! Flame Strike!”

“I will kill you. Ice Blast.”

While Jachung smiled and nodded, two girls from Dale Castle flew into the air.

With red and blue hair fluttering in the air, they launched the magic.

“C-cough! Ram Hwayeon-nim, Ram Hwajung-nim?!” Both Leeha and Jachung knew that the magic was not just to shut Jachung’s mouth.

The magic cast was ‘explosive’ magic, and what was worse was that Jachung was near the castle, and wasn’t he close to Leeha too?

As Jachung tried to save himself, he reached out to Leeha. Jachung was a level 200 dealer-tank user. It would be difficult to block the magic, but he could avoid it. Even if he got hit, he could live. But what was he doing?

‘He’s in the low 100s. If it’s Ram Hwajung’s magic, even if he only gets swept by Ram Hwayeon-nim’s magic – the splash damage-’

He might die!


Jachung immediately looked at Leeha. If he was a step late, he could hug Leeha and take a leap!

“Dodge, Ha Leeha-”

“Ugh! Didn’t you think about me!”

However, Leeha’s action was ahead of Jachung’s thoughts.

The magic that flew towards them was an explosive type, but it was a ‘single target magic’. It was not a wide area magic.

And Leeha had seen it once before. How did Tale react to the magic Ram Hwajung shot before?

Leeha took a step back and grabbed the musket on his shoulder. Like an honor guard, he turned the gun once, got down on his knees, and aimed. His target was the Ice Blast.

Baaang—!

After firing he moved before the smoke could even disappear, he put the musket on his back and he pulled the needle-gun pistol out.

He supported his right arm by putting his left arm under his right wrist which was used to aim at the Flame Strike, bang-!

It was a continuous movement as if he was dancing.

Leeha’s movement was quick and smooth like flowing water.

The mana aggregation was broken in just two shots, it was enough to disperse the magic.

“…Oh my goodness… As expected, it wasn’t a coincidence that you killed Igor…”

“C-crazy! Did you get rid of them? What the hell was that speed?”

“Pretty great.”

All three of them had no choice but to open their mouths wide. It was well deserved.

Leeha’s consecutive motions of pulling out the musket and shooting, and pulling out the pistol, and shooting were done in just 1.8 seconds. It was less than 2 seconds.

“Wow, haa! Hey… You girls! Look at the people before using magic!”

Of course, from Leeha’s standpoint, it felt like a life-threatening feat. It was fortunate that he had preloaded, otherwise, he had no choice but to use the Force Barrier.


As he calmed his pounding heart, Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung came down from the air, and Leeha realized. Just now his movements were extremely fast. Even if he could shoot one of them, he thought he would not be able to shoot the other one.

Leeha was surprised and bewildered to find out that his movements were noticeably faster.

‘Why am I so fast? No, it wasn’t just about speeding up.’

It was fast and accurate. Rather than being swayed by the incredible speed, it felt like all of his physical abilities had improved.

“What? Did you level up? It is rare even in our guild to see a reaction like that…”

“Well. I think it’s because of the increased agility…I don’t know. No, before that! No matter how many castles you’ve got, is it okay to use offensive magic inside the castle? I almost died!”

“T-that… So-rry, that! So why were you talking about useless things with Jachung?”

“Who? Me? I just listened! I don’t even know what it was about!”

Ram Hwayeon got embarrassed and angry. It was ridiculous from Leeha’s perspective.

He only went to Dale Castle to get to the dungeons, but then he got forced to come to the castle, and then he heard something ridiculous about himself and almost died. Who was angry with whom?

“Jachung! Stop right there, what the hell were you trying to talk about?”

“T-that… Haha, I thought it would be helpful later if I knew beforehand… Hwayeon-nim to Leeha-nim-”

“Ahhhh!!! Ahhhh!! Stop, stop!” Ram Hwayeon waved her arms and stopped Jachung’s words.

Seeing this, Leeha couldn’t help but laugh out loud. There were times when even Ram Hwayeon was like that.

‘She’s even pretty cute… What do you mean cute? What kind of cute girl throws a Flame strike without knowing the explosion range!’

As Leeha shook his head, he felt the hem of his robe being pulled.

“Hmm? R-Ram Hwajung-….ssi?”

When he turned around, he saw a little girl with blue hair pulling his clothes tightly.

She had a face that always seemed to be frozen. A little lady who wondered if the difference between smiling and getting angry was about 1mm from the corner of her mouth. For Leeha, Ram Hwajung was more difficult to deal with than Ram Hwayeon.

“Crystal ball and scroll. You have to hide your stats.”

“Oh? W-wait…? What’s this?”

Ram Hwajung took something out of her bag and handed it to Leeha.

The flustered Leeha did not want to receive it, but he couldn’t refuse when he saw the items he held in his hands.

The crystal ball that recorded the location, Leeha wanted to buy it before but couldn’t because he had no money.

‘Isn’t this a high-end one? What are all these scrolls?’

In addition, there were special scrolls that could only be purchased from the wandering merchant Arkan.

“What-”

“I bought it a while ago.”

“Oh, I see! You bought it a while ago so you are giving it! How many people would be able to understand what you said?”

Ram Hwayeon was not satisfied with her younger sister’s answer at all, but she was not able to refute the words that followed.

“…I want to give it to oppa.”

At the unexpected words coming out of the youngest princess’s mouth, Jachung and Ram Hwayeon’s faces hardened.

“You want to give it to me? Ha, haha….. I should say thank you, right? I will use it well, thank you.”

As Leeha thanked her, the Ice Witch’s face turned red as if it was getting burnt. She hid behind Ram Hwayeon’s back.

In Dale Castle’s front yard, the three stunned people looked at each other awkwardly.

A normal conversation was only possible after the brief disturbance had finally subsided.

“Why did you come to Dale Castle? Are you already trying to exercise your right? It’s still a long way from getting settled.”

“No way. Do you think I’m that stupid ? I came to check the ‘Sealed Underground Waterway Dungeon’.”

“Are you over 130 already?”

“No, I’m still under 120.”

“Hmm, well, since you’re famous, you should be able to find a party.”

Especially in Dale Castle, because there was nobody who wouldn’t recognize Leeha.

“Huh? I won’t join a party.”

“What? You said you’re not even level 120 yet? But you’re saying that you would go to a level 130 dungeon alone?”

“Yes. What are you so surprised about?”

“T-this… besides, dungeons are different from Igor! It’s not about shooting from a distance. If you want to solo safely, at the least-”

“140, no, you should be around level 145. I know.”

Ram Hwayeon wasn’t able to keep up with Leeha’s words. The confident man’s eyes shot into Ram Hwayeon’s face.

Leeha was prepared to that extent. He also wanted to test how much stronger his current self was.

“Then should I guide you?”

“Yes. No! Jachung, go in and do your job. I will take you.”

“Huh, okay.”

“D-don’t smile mischievously! I will guide him and get back right away, so by then, finish organizing all the tax rates of each item!”

“Yes, okay, don’t worry and take your time.”

Jachung just smiled and disappeared despite the excessive work orders, and Ram Hwayeon took the lead after fanning herself with her hands for a while.

“Did you bring a return scroll?”

“Yes.”

“What about your weapon and bullets? Is it enough?”

“Of course.”

“Are all your skills no longer in cooldown?”

“Of course.”

“Potions? Do you have any?”

“I don’t. No, but are you my mom? Why are you asking questions like that? I’m not a kid who is going to a picnic for the first time.”

“Cough- I was just curious! Curious! Curious! How can you go into a dungeon without any potions! Wait a minute, the potion is-”

“Here, oppa.”

Before Ram Hwayeon could even go through her bag, a red bottle appeared in Ram Hwajung’s hand.

“Oh? T-Thanks.”

After Leeha received the potion, Hwayeon looked at Hwajung for a moment before walking again.

It goes without saying that as soon as they got out of the inner gate, people appeared from everywhere.

“It’s Ram Hwayeon-nim! And there’s Ram Hwajung-nim as well”

“Wow, isn’t that Ha Leeha-nim in the back?”

“Amazing! I guess Hwahong scouted him? No, there’s no guild mark anywhere…”

“Hwahong will really eat up all of the Fibiel Kingdom. Damn.”

Leeha was embarrassed and lowered his head, but for Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, it was a daily routine.

Did they think that people around them were folding screens? They raised their heads proudly, not even paying attention to their chatter.

‘As expected, they have the boldness that could kill. Is this a family characteristic? When you’re a child of the Ram Long group, you wouldn’t even feel the gazes around you.’

(To be continued…)
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Leeha was amazed as he saw Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung like that. Not everyone could be a celebrity.

“We’re here now.”

“Hmm, there are a lot of people.”

Like that they arrived at the Sealed Underground Waterway instance dungeon inside Dale Castle.

Users gathered and formed parties near the entrance, and the guards controlled the users and checked the tickets.

“I greet Hwahong’s guild master.”

“Ah, thank you for your hard work. Here, this man is going to enter the dungeon”

“Come in.”

“Thanks.”

Of course, Ram Hwayeon could freely enter. One of the things Leeha was curious about was whether he could get a free pass with his current stakes.

Perhaps reading his expression, Ram Hwayeon spoke first.

“You also have a stake, so you can come anytime. I only came this time to show you the location.”

“If it’s about the location, I already knew it…“

“What?”

“No! Nothing. Thank you.”

“If you think it’s dangerous, use the return scroll right away. Don’t overdo it by being greedy for the experience. If you ever need a tanker, we can lend you someone from our guild.”

“Hey, that’s enough I don’t want to bother you that much. Anyway, thank you, Ram Hwayeon-ssi, Ram Hwajung-ssi.”


“Be careful!”

“I got it!”

Although Ram Hwayeon looked anxious, Leeha threw himself into the entrance without hesitation. A lone dealer went to the dungeon alone. It was clear that he would have a hard time even with his skills.

“It’s okay, unni.”

“Huh?”

“This won’t be a problem for him.”

“What?”

Hwajung looked at Hwayeon and said vague words. In her hand, the information check scroll was torn.

***

“Phew, it wasn’t necessary for them to implement even the humidity.”

The dungeon, where the rattling sewage flowed leisurely, felt really humid. Leeha had a practical reason for coming here.

It was a sewer, not a cave, so the dungeon was wide, and there were many straight paths.

‘Still, the solo recommendation was level 145 or higher.’

In other words, this dungeon was sufficient to accumulate experience points until level 145. For Leeha, who was level 118, it would be the sweetest fruit.

‘That is… if I could catch it.’

Huu, huu. Leeha finished reloading the musket and pistol and proceeded carefully. There was no map, and even the lights were dimly lit.

There was no middle ground in an instance dungeon.

Either clear it to the end and get experience or give up halfway to save your life.

Of course, if you leave in the middle, the experience points you have accumulated would be lost.

‘So compared to the Sentinel Mountains, there are fewer solo players in an instance dungeon. I mean, there are a lot of risks.’


Leeha was somehow confident- but he didn’t let down his guard and kept his eyes on the path. It was then that he saw bubbles bubbling in the slow-flowing sewer.

“Tuchuuuuuu!!”

The frog resembled a human, tulloc! The monster’s puffy cheek was ready to spit out poison toward Leeha at any time!

“Ah-”

Baaang—-!

“-that surprised me!”

Leeha’s body was faster than his words. Before it could spit its venom, the tulloc turned into a shriveled frog.

One shot, one kill.

“What? One-shot?”

Leeha, of course, was not able to adapt to his body, react faster than expected. Besides, no matter how fast he was, the monster was level 130 or higher. One-shot?

Leeha didn’t even hit its head. It was just shot somewhere in its body. It still died in one shot.

Ram Hwayeon, who was still outside the underground waterway instance dungeon, asked Ram Hwajung.

“What do you mean by ‘he would be fine’, hwajeong? Did you see Ha Leeha’s stats?”

“Yeah, I saw it.”

“How is it?”

“Agility 1,000.”

“…Thousand? Agility is in the thousand? It isn’t his total stats?”

“He also has Igor’s skill. Nothing can stop him in the Underground Waterway.”

“Ah, no, wait, hwajeong! Is it really 1000? Ha Leeha? He’s not even 120 yet! Then what-…”

***


Without knowing the admiration felt by Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, Leeha continued to explore the dungeon. It was exactly as Middle Earth’s Genius, Ram Hwajung, said.

“Why am I so strong?”

Leeha was surprised by his own strength.

“Crooak“

“Tuwaaaapa–!!”

Bang, bang, bang, bang!

Every time a gunshot rang out, a monster died. It was a situation in which the monsters died regardless of whether they got hit in the head, chest, stomach, or even thigh.

『 You have leveled up. 』

And how much experience was given?. It was enough to level up.

“Can this be called a dungeon? It’s like riding ‘The Adventures of Sinbad’. The humidity is similar.”

If it was a party of 5 level 130 users, they would have explored the dungeon while grunting. However, it was nothing more than a theme park ride for Leeha.

‘Is it because of Forbidden Rage? It really is too strong. Besides, my reload speed….’

It had become so fast that he wondered if he would still need the skill Delicate Hand Movement.

The Musket Mastery skill was steadily rising, but the movements based on his agility became so fast.

Taking one stat to 1,000 had a special meaning. If you want to get a single stat to 1000 just by leveling up without any achievements, you would have to get close to level 180 even if you put all your points into it.

Of course, if you distribute your stat points to different stats because of equipment requirements, it would be impossible to get 1000 on a single stat at level 180.

It was only natural for Ram Hwajung to feel relieved after seeing Leeha’s stats.

“It’s so easy that I’m feeling sorry… Haha.”

Leeha scratched his head.

A huge snake opened its mouth from the ceiling, but grapeshot bullets shot from the pistol destroyed its head.

“Aigoo, sorry. Why did you surprise me like that?”

Leeha explored the underground waterway while looting items. It was a problem if it jumped down by surprise, but there was no particular danger if he preloaded in advance.

『 You have leveled up. 』

“Phew, now… I need to focus a little.”

After raising another level, Leeha stood in front of the boss room. It was the final part of the instance dungeon.

If you succeed, you would be able to take out all the experience you have gotten so far, but what if you die here? The death penalty, was only natural, and you will also lose all the experience you have received in the dungeon.

‘The boss is a berserk giant Tulloc. I already know its information. I also know about the underlings that appear together with it.’

It has a speed that doesn’t fit its huge body. Besides, like a mutant contaminated with sewage, it has a hard outer shell that repels most swords and spears.

As it was a frog, it was a boss that attacked by jumping, with long-ranged poison.

In addition, if you position yourself in the wrong place when preparing for the boss, there the danger that the magician, ranged dealer, and healer could quickly get killed by the tullocs.

Leeha removed the gunpowder and the residue from the musket and pistol and reloaded them.

“Okay. The return scroll is also within reach.”

Dying would be the worst thing that could happen. He had to avoid at least that. If something bad happened, he was ready to run away at any time! Leeha opened the iron gate leading to the boss room.

Creeeak.

Leeha stepped into the room full of sewage and heard a frog’s cry in the darkness.

Crooak- Croooak-

“Huu, it’s not like I wasn’t prepared for anything.”

Leeha, from the run-up, threw what he was holding as hard as he could.

As long as he did not have any light source such as a light or torch, there was only one way to get light!

Boom—! Croooak–!!

The bomb exploded and spewed out flames.

“Nice! One on the right!”

Bang–!

Leeha turned and used the musket while simultaneously pulling out the needle gun pistol!

“Two on the left!”

Bang-!

He killed two tullocs in an instant.

The giant tulloc, who lost its sight from the sudden wave, struggled.

Boom, boom-!

It was so powerful that the walls shook and stone powder fell. The frog, carrying the sparks from the bomb, cried.

“Crooooak!!!”

“Come, you rotting frog!”

The hummingbird was already reloaded. Calm Mind, snipe- and click.

Baaang—!

Bodily fluids splattered from the giant tulloc’s body along with the gunshot. It wouldn’t be easy to knock down such a huge body with one small hole, if the hole wasn’t located at the head.

『 You have leveled up. 』

The boss of the Sealed Underground Waterway Dungeon, the gigantic Tulloc, which exploded from the clean headshot, shone from the light emitted from Leeha’s body.

“At a time like this, having a big head is not an advantage. I mean, whatever you do, you’re at a disadvantage. Even a hat won’t fit well.”

The frog probably wouldn’t wear a hat, but Leeha only laughed. It was ridiculously easy that it was a joke for him to be nervous before entering the room.

“Hmm, I mean, I have to take this as a reward…”

Leeha trudged and grabbed the fluid sack under the gigantic tulloc’s chin. Even the sticky texture was implemented, so it was something the female users would not like to pick up.

“Kek, I’ll have to live here for a while.”

Up to 3 levels per round. In addition, it took less than an hour to clear. He could stay here at least until level 130.

“What is Ha Leeha doing?”

“Today he went to the underground waterway as well.”

“Still? How many days has it been?”

“He has a great commitment.”

When Jachung smiled brightly and complemented Leeha, Ram Hwayeon inflated her cheeks slightly.

“He should sleep as well.”

When will he log out? She always wondered if she could see his face in Dale Castle when she looked at her friend’s list, but he didn’t come out of the underground waterway.

“Are you worried? It seems that he has leveled up a lot.”

“What worry?! He doesn’t need a ticket, so it seems like he’s trying to get the most out of it. Jachung! Collect an entrance fee from him in the future!”

“Haha, would that be okay, guild master-nim?”

Jachung laughed and looked at Ram Hwayeon. Ram Hwayeon looked at his eyes for a moment, then shook her head right away.

Strangely, when they talk about Leeha, she gets mad at herself when she can’t win against Jachung.

“Hmph… no! It’s okay. Are the guild ‘donations’ related to Armios and Rehes city over?”

“Of course. If you wish, we can also arrange a meeting with those guilds anytime.”

“Okay. After we occupy those two places, our primary goal is complete, so let’s do our best and move on.”

“Yes, guildmaster-nim.”

(To be continued…)
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This time, neither combat power nor capital would be lost.

From Hwahong’s, who had fought the Korean guilds, point of view it would be nothing short of bloodless.

The war fought to get Dale Castle, paradoxically, ‘increased’ the power of Hwahong.

“What about you Hwajung? Are there any rankers or outsiders around?”

“…Two, no, three.”

“Three? Who?”

“Czar Guild. Wandering around Dale Castle.”

“Phew, Igor is also waiting somewhere… I knew that crazy guy would be like that. He is so mountain-like. Ah, but who is the guild master? Why are they together with Igor?”

Ram Hwayeon frowned.

“According to the investigation, he belongs to the Russian Military. It’s said to be a guild led by soldiers selected for cyber warfare…It’s an open secret that the Russian government is supporting Igor.”

“Tsk, Pei Wu touched a beehive.”

“That’s right.”

After Igor outranked Pei Wu, large-scale guilds in China prevented Igor from leveling up. Even Russia intervened in secret when they heard the news.

Of course, it wasn’t an official intervention. Russia’s prestige would lower if rumors spread that they were putting such effort into a single game.

“What about the other two?”

“One is…Kidd. Sleeping Kidd.”

“Sleeping Kidd. Who is that?”


“Hmm, an outsider that handles two guns. I think Ha Leeha-nim would know him.”

Jachung looked at the file containing the outsiders’ information.

“Why? Is he here to meet Ha Leeha?”

“I don’t know. And there’s another one nearby. Near Kidd. It’s like they are chasing Kidd.”

Ram Hwajung did not know everything.

She built a system that could do surveillance and monitoring using mana in various places near Dale Castle, however, she could not grasp the users’ intentions.

“Who?”

“Luger.”

Hwajung’s face darkened slightly.

“Who’s Luger?”

“Luger? Hwajung-nim, I don’t think it’s Luger-”

“Right. That’s Luger.

‘War Mercenary’.”

Jachung’s face turned blue. Originally, he was interested, and because of Ram Hwayeon’s instructions, he remembered quite a lot of information about the outsiders.

“Surely! Ah, no, it has already been a while- and he was outside the Fibiel Kingdom! So I was not able to reach him for the war against the Byulcho Alliance… and now he came-”

“Jachung. Who is Luger?”

“It’s just as the nickname suggests. War mercenary! He’s good at fighting- he’s a warmonger that would fight if given money!”

“Is he strong?”

“I haven’t seen him either, but his nickname due to the rumors should be enough proof. Among his nicknames as a hired soldier are Mercenary, which literally means a hired soldier, and Dragon Fighter! In other words, there were rumors that he had obtained it by fighting a dragon.”

Jachung pulled out a file he had organized from the filing cabinet. Ram Hwayeon quickly grabbed the piece of paper with Luger’s information from it.


“Did he fight a dragon? Did he raid a dragon?”

“No. I don’t think it’s a simple raid. Nicknames are often created from events with significant impact. They said it was PvP.”

“No way…? When it comes to dragon-related PvP, isn’t there only one person in Middle Earth?”

Jachung was surprised, and Ram Hwajung’s face hardened.

Looking at Ram Hwayeon, who couldn’t believe it, Jachung barely answered.

“That’s…right. It was the battle with that person that made Luger famous. After the battle with ‘Dragon Knight’ Alexander, who was also ranked number one in the world at that time.”

Alexander from the U. S., ranked number 1 in the world. Alexander W Great. Middle Earth’s first and only professional.

As a dragoon, he succeeded in becoming a Dragon Knight through an unknown quest. A job that first rode a horse and used a spear started to ride a dragon one day.

After that, leveling had never been easier.

The Magic Swordsman Lee Jiwon, who closely followed Alexander, had monster-like abilities, however, Alexander the courageous knight could be seen as a monster itself.

“Fighting with Alexander and earning a nickname…”

A-Alexander would not have lost. There were many different kinds of rumors

Then why?

‘Why is he walking around Dale Castle?’

Now, there was one question that Hwayeon had to focus on. Igor worries me too, but why did Sleeping Kidd and Mercenary Luger come here?

‘It couldn’t be hunting. They could easily overcome the dungeons in Dale Castle. Was it to cross over to the Shazrashian Federation? Then they could use warp. Why were they walking around here?’

Hwayeon alternately looked at Jachung and Hwajung.

She shouldn’t be showing such a perplexed expression. When you don’t know the reason, you can just ignore it.

“Jachung, if you have any informants nearby, ask them to return. Because we won’t get any benefits from getting entangled with them. Hwajung you need to be careful too. They may come after you, so be prepared, don’t approach them first.”

Now, she was nothing more than the lord of the castle. If so, she needed to protect the castle. It was for the safety of the guild.


‘Maybe it’s because of Ha Leeha…?’

An ominous thought ran through Ram Hwayeon’s head as she gave her instructions. In that case, how should she act?

—

『 You have leveled up. 』

“Hmmm. This is perfect. Reaching level 144…”

Leeha smiled and took off the giant tulloc’s bodily fluid sack. He rose 26 levels from level 118 in just a few days. It was impossible to achieve such leveling speed,unless you used a cheat key.

It takes 1 week for someone to get from level 18 to level 44, but someone who was in the 100s was able to level up faster than that!

‘Haha, it was only natural that I didn’t want to sleep. It’s slowly getting hard to earn experience.’

Anyway, since 5 days have passed in Middle Earth, it meant that he had only played 24 hours in reality.

‘When I was in middle school and high school, it wasn’t even a big deal for me to peel chestnuts through the night. I’m more tired mentally than physically. No, my brain seems to be overloaded after a few days. Smack.’

He was rather on fire when he fought against the Rising Sun. The exhilarating life and death battle made the brain stay alert. However, what about hunting?

The Sealed Underground Waterway Dungeon was not able to excite Leeha at all.

It felt like a repetition of a boring simple task. It must not have felt great to have done such repetitive work without a break.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 144 (0%) Title:Fearless / Achievements: 37

HP： 2,544(4,240) / MP: 1,070

Stats:

Strength: 123 (+93),

Agility: 1008 (+250)

Intelligence: 103 (+52),

Constitution: 145 (+52),

Mind: 40 (+30)

Remaining Stat points: 217

“Hmm, that’s a lot. Should I only use 150?”

Did it mean that he could use stats like water? He had 217 stat points that were precious to others… Leeha paused to take a look at his constitution, and thought for a moment.

‘Wouldn’t I get only one shot anyway? I need it… to withstand the mobs. But what if there’s a situation where I need to fight against boss mobs or high level users? I would only get one shot anyway.’

Putting 10 or 20 points to constitution wouldn’t make any difference, it won’t make a difference unless I invest 150 points .

‘『 Forbidden Rage 』 cuts total health and increases total attack power. My attack power would not increase even if I increased my constitution. Then investing in it would be a waste.’

Leeha decided to 27 points in strength and 92 points in agility.

Stats: Strength 150 (+93),

Agility: 1,100 (+250),

Intelligence: 103 (+52),

Constitution: 145 (+52),

Mind: 40 (+30)

Remaining stat points: 98

“Hahahaha! There’s still 98 points left! Now I can graduate from the underground waterway.”

Should I try the level 170 dungeon or something higher? Leeha, without coming out of the underground waterway, touched the Hummingbird.

‘No, now… I think it’s time to try that now.’

It was extremely difficult to hit a target that was 444m away with only three chances. However, there was hope now.

Although the target was much larger than an adult male, he had a lot of shooting-experience.

‘It was close. I kept shooting for the head, but except for the first shot, I only hit places like the thighs or the shoulder…. It was also between 360m〜380m.’

It was usually on the higher end of 300m, but what about the last shot? As mentioned in the broadcast, it was 407m. And he hit Igor’s face, which was exactly where he had aimed at.

‘At that time, it was 70% luck and 30% hard work, but now…it feels like it’s 30% luck and 70% hard work.’

Agility 1,100. He felt that the stability of the Hummingbird was at the maximum.

“Okay! I will clear the quest! I will now earn 20,000 gold in earnest-”

– To the south gate of Dale Castle.

“-! Huh?”

A humming noise was heard in Leeha’s head as he was about to prepare himself. It was a voice he had once heard.

The voice was urgent so Leeha was not able to remember right away, Leeha knew who the owner of the voice was

– Hurry! Come here.

– …Kidd?

– I have to go.

– Suddenly- no, the south gate? Are you in Dale Castle now?

Leeha, who was about to ask Kidd why, immediately changed the question. If he asked, there was no way to get a proper answer. However, he did not receive any reply.

“Damn it! Anyway! You need to converse properly!”

Leeha tightened the musket’s strap. The underground waterway was close to the south gate. He ran with all his might.

He went straight to the south gate. Leeha kept running while whispering to Kidd. Since it was not a beginner village, there was no way anyone would hunt outside. There were no users around.

“Haa, haa, where are you ? Kidd! Mister Kidd!”

– Quiet! To the left tree.

It was only then that he heard Kidd’s whisper. Leeha grumbled and followed Kidd’s instructions.

‘Am I your underling? Still, he’s the best guy I know. I have no choice but to figure out what he wants to talk about.’

In a place where a few trees were gathered, Kidd was sitting down in the shade. His side was red and wet.

“Why did you call- blood? What? Where did you fight?”

Leeha no longer grumbled, and looked through his bag. He took out a potion and handed it to him, but Kidd did not take it.

“It’s no use. I must go to the temple. Because there’s a curse on it”

“Curse- hmm?!”

When Kidd released his hand, the wound was exposed. The coat, as well as the skin, flesh, and muscles were all pierced, and there was a hole in it.

“W-what a scar like this- ah!? No way?”

The wound gave Leeha goosebumps. It was different from making a hole through a window.

No other weapon in Middle Earth could cut a hole so neatly. If there was, it would be…

『 Pierce 』?”

Bullet. No, if it’s this size, wouldn’t you call it a cannonball?

A hole the size of a human fist. Had this been in reality, Kidd would have died instantly.

“Y-yes. Make a party with me. I have to get out of here before he comes.”

“Before he comes? Who?”

(To be continued…)

TL’s note: 운7 기3(unchilgisam) – 70% luck 30% hardwork, it means some people are so lucky that they can achieve things easily. This actually fits Leeha’s situation when he killed Igor.
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Kidd frowned at the pain and asked for a party. Leeha accepted the request without hesitation! And Leeha could hear his answer.

It didn’t come out of Kidd’s mouth. It was because of the light purple membrane that covered the sky.

“…It is too late now.”

Kidd bit his lip in resignation. Leeha’s eyesight was second to none.

When he poked his head out, he saw a man with a torn scroll in the distance.

An impressive man with blonde hair that seemed to shine brighter because of his pure white skin and neat pomade coat approached.

“Shoot.”

“What? That person? Oh, I know Kidd but I don’t want to make an enemy because of you-”

“Hey, would he think like that? You won’t be able to think like that after you get a wind hole in your lungs.”

Leeha loaded his musket. Why were the three musketeers like this? Shouldn’t they have a conversation first?

‘These bastards aren’t even primitive. What’s the use of your mouth?’

Even if he complained, he didn’t mind. Who was Kidd? He was the one who faced Shin Nara.

‘Rapid Fire’ Kidd was someone who had inherited Browless’s attribute. What kind of man would he run away from with a hole in his side?

‘Pierce’ is strong, what he said was not a lie.

Leeha laid on his side and went into a shooting posture.

Step, step. He probably hadn’t found them yet.

‘It’s not far away. Less than 250m.’


It was possible to hit at that distance, Leeha carefully raised his musket. Fortunately, ‘Pierce’ also stopped moving.

‘If I shoot now, I would definitely hit-’

He couldn’t finish aiming. He looked through the gun barrel. As he stood, what weapon did the blonde-haired man raise?

Seeing the man hold a cannon, Leeha’s back trembled. It was pointed right at Leeha’s direction.

‘-no!’

“Waaak!”

Leeha rolled his body and screamed. Not minding whether he gets dirty or not, he rolled on the ground and went behind the tree.

Thump,thump,thump- He felt his heart beat faster. It wasn’t due to the combat assistance system. The pressure made Leeha’s body heat up.

“Did you feel it too? As expected…”

“Haa, haa, what? That’s… What is that?”

Kidd spoke as if he admired what Leeha had felt, but Leeha wasn’t happy at all.

Because fear covered his body right now.

‘If I pulled the trigger- no, I would have died before I could pull it.’

What kind of weapon was aimed at him? At least in terms of sense, Leeha felt that he would ‘die’.

It was different from when he aimed at Igor, when he was perfectly prepared. The pressure Leeha felt was more than what he felt from Igor.

“The strength of ‘Bullseye’ cannot be used because of the distance. Phew…”

Kidd glanced at his wounds and sighed.

“I will buy you some time.”

“What?”

“I won’t last long.”


“N-no, wait!”

Without waiting for Leeha to respond, Kidd stood up.

As his coat opened, four crimson colored pistols hung from his waist, their color was as thick as scorched blood.

The blonde pomade man stopped and looked at Kidd.

“Kidd.”

“I will play with you for a while, Luger.”

Following ‘Rapid Fire’ Kidd, ‘Pierce’ Luger appeared in front of Leeha.

It was Luger who fired first.

A Cobalt Blue named after the color of the deepest lake. It wasn’t a bullet that was fired when his shot ended.

Claaaaang—!

“D-danger-”

Leeha’s warning was late. Fortunately, Kidd’s movement was faster than Leeha’s words.

Leeha saw Kidd raising two pistols.

After that, by the time the gunshots were heard one after another一 four bullets had already been fired.

‘Crazy!’

Luger ran with his gun raised to cover his face.

Clang, clang, from the sound of the impact, it meant that every bullet Kidd fired was aimed precisely at Luger’s face.

It was surprising that he was able to aim at such speed, but Luger, whose face was covered with a huge barrel, did not have a difficult time blocking him.

‘I don’t know what’s happening, but I have to stop the fight for now. I will hit ‘Pierce’s leg-’

It took less than 5 seconds for Leeha to organize his thoughts. Meanwhile, a gunshot was heard again.


Bang- Bang-!

It took that fast for four pistols to be loaded. Kidd ran around Luger and pulled the trigger again.

Luger had already moved, so the bullets bounced off gravel or weed.

Mobile reloading was nothing for the two of them. No, it wasn’t just simple movements.

They made the right move by measuring their opponent’s reload and firing time. Even Luger with that heavy looking gun never lagged behind Kidd’s speed.

‘What’s their reload speed…? Additionally, Luger’s movements were perfect evasive maneuvers.’

There’s a reason for Kidd being called ‘Rapid fire’. It took Leeha 7 seconds to reload the needle-gun pistol. But he was able to reload four pistols within 5 seconds?

While Leeha was lost in thought for a moment, Kidd screamed urgently.

“Hurry! Look for a chance-”

Claaaaang—!

And when he stopped talking, a loud gunshot was heard.

Kidd managed to roll over, and the bullet that narrowly skimmed against his body pierced through a few trees at least 200m away..

Craack, craaack, the sound of falling trees could be heard from Leeha’s position.

‘What? What kind of bullet did he shoot to pierce through the trees? Besides, how many? They’re not even armor-piercing bullets!’

It wasn’t a bullet made of iron. It could penetrate through a target! Bullets designed and manufactured with the purpose of penetration are called armor-piercing bullets.

‘No, is it an armor-piercing bullet that went through Kidd’s body? Did he make something like that? This…This is out of Middle Earth!’

Leeha could not believe their battle.

Is this a battle of people with ‘guns’? This was more like a battle between a heavy tank and a light tank.

Kidd ran around Luger at a high speed as he fired his pistols. His movements were as agile as a martial artist, and he could reload four pistols within five seconds.

What about the accuracy and the shooting speed? The bullets flew right over Luger’s shoulder or head, and all four shots were fired almost simultaneously.

His movements were ‘like a martial artist’.

So what about Luger? He dodged or blocked the four fierce shots that poured out every 5 seconds. He wouldn’t have been able to see the bullets, so his actions had to be understood as a prediction of Kidd’s aim.

Even with perfect evasive maneuvers, his reload time took about 10 seconds or so. What was fired each time was a cannone, with a lot of destructive power! In one shot, the ground was plowed, rocks were smashed, and bullets flew to the extent that several trees were toppled.

In the midst of shots and loud explosions Leeha was at a loss.

What could he do in this situation? It was a more vivid and daunting scene than the battle between Hwahong and the Byulcho Alliance.

“I’m not interested in you, Kidd. Hand over 『 Arcane Sniper 』.”

“He hasn’t- earned it yet. It’s just a nickname!”

Boom, Kidd threw himself to avoid Luger’s attack. His HP was already very low.

Moreover, although Leeha did not know, it was after being hit by the cursed bullet once.

It wasn’t that his HP simply did not recover, but the more he moved, the more his HP decreased.

“Ha Leeha! Hurry! I can’t hold out any longer一” Leeha, who stared blankly at the battle, sobered up at Kidd’s shout.

‘What are you doing, you idiot! Anyway, Kidd is fighting for you. You have to help.’

Leeha was in a knee-shooting posture. If he was in a crawling-shooting posture and Luger’s muzzle were to be pointed at him, he wouldn’t even have the room to dodge.

“Huuu…huuu… Eagle’s eyes, delicate Hand Movement, snipe.”

He used his skills all at once. And Leeha aimed at Luger.

“Hmm?”

Luger noticed it too. He felt someone looking at him from somewhere.

He ran in a zigzag fashion and widened the distance! It was a movement he was all too familiar with in a battle of firearms.

“This-”

How was he supposed to shoot someone who moves like that? Leeha aimed the Hummingbird at Luger,but it was not easy to aim at a person who had started evading.

“I see. Is that the 『』?”

Bang, bang, the sound was followed by shooting echoes. Luger finally found Leeha.

“I won’t back down. At least with you-”

“I don’t need you anymore.”

It was a miracle in itself that Kidd, whose field of vision was limited to half, was able to face Luger for so long.

However, Luger leisurely took a bullet out of his bag and finished reloading, as if he had intentionally overlooked the attacks so far.

“Goodbye, Kidd.”

Leeha saw it. The muzzle of ‘Pierce’s’ gun was slightly lowered. It was not aimed at the person who was trying to hit him from the beginning.

‘Maybe!’

“No!! Kidd! Don’t run there!!!”

Boom—!

The cannonball headed towards the ground where Kidd was about to move.

Hearing Leeha’s shout, Kidd stopped in a hurry.

Kwakakakak!

Kidd’s foot would have been removed if he had taken two more steps.

In the crushed earth, bullets were lodged. It was Leeha who discovered what the bullets were first.

“Hmm? T-that- that…? No way…”

While looking at Kidd, what caught Leeha’s eyes was a long red bullet that turned red.

Kidd, who was relieved that he had barely avoided the bullet, saw the bullet lodged in the ground.

“Jesus…”

What can be said to be the peak in killing human life?

What if it didn’t explode immediately and has a penetrating power…?

The name of the cannonball immediately came to Leeha’s mind, as he had learned about it when he was an NCO.

“APHE (Armor Piercing High Explosive)?”

An armor-piercing round that can be used to shoot down tanks. It was a nightmare.

TL’s Note: Decided to change The Marksman to Arcane Sniper, to stay true to the Korean title of the novel.
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He had no time to think. A second or less, he got up first and ran.

‘There’s still time, at the most three seconds, but-’

They did not destroy structures such as ships or buildings.

The armored part of the warhead had been completely damaged, the armor-piercing grenade should have immediately detonated, but it did not immediately explode as it was slanted against the ground.

However, it was necessary to assume that a delayed fuse was installed.

Compared to himself, who shot iron bullets, what ‘Pierce’ shot was modern weaponry.

It would be too optimistic to think that there was no delay fuse when ‘Pierce’ was able to use armor-piercing shells and armor-piercing grenades.

“Kidd!!!”

Kidd just looked at the armor-piercing grenade stuck on the ground for two seconds.

From the moment he thought he was going to die, he was unable to move. If he didn’t have the necessary knowledge, Leeha would have thought that it would not explode.

Kidd, who was standing still, suddenly felt a force drawn to him. Puuk- Leeha hugged him with a tackle, and with a forceful voice said.

“Force Barrier!!”

Boom—!!!

A huge explosion occurred near the south gate of Dale Castle. Unlike an improvised explosive, flames and shockwaves crushed Leeha and Kidd’s body. They felt so much pressure that they had no choice but to roll when the barrier got hit!

“Waaaa!”

“Cough-! Cough-”

Sizzle- Sizzle-…….


As if a typhoon had passed, only after the shockwaves were over did Leeha and Kidd raise their heads.

“I’m… not dead?”

Kidd sighed. The sight of the residual flames spreading to the surrounding grass and producing rancid smoke looked similar to the horrors of war.

What made Leeha more flabbergasted was that the jade-colored shield that surrounded him and Kidd had disappeared.

‘The Force Barrier was broken…?’

It was an expert-ranked skill. It was a shield that was even able to stop the Brass Golem’s spike, which made users in their early 100s tremble in fear. But with only one shot?

“Haa, haa, crazy, what the fuck is that crazy bastard-”

He didn’t even have the time to swear. Luger was already fiddling with his musket’s gun barrel. If you think that a bullet similar to the previous one would fly again, you have no choice but to move immediately.

“Get up, Kidd! Quick!”

“Nice view-”

“Can you stop acting arrogant and move? Get up quickly!”

Kidd wriggled his eyebrows for a moment, but he stood up with the help of Leeha’s outstretched hand.

When Leeha looked at Kidd, Kidd’s condition was not good. The hole in his side was still bleeding, and because of the curse he continuously lost HP, and his vision continued to get narrower.

It was so serious that it could make a person cry, but Kidd did not want to show weakness in front of Leeha.

“Run to Dale Castle!”

Leeha and Kidd started running at the same time. What would the range of accuracy of that guy be?

They were around 150m away from him. It was still close.

‘I don’t know his effective range, but we should at least be 500m away from him!’

Leeha’s eyes, who glanced back, and Luger’s, who raised his musket, met. He was going to start aiming soon. He would fire close to them. There was a high possibility that they would not be able to get out of Luger’s effective range, let alone get to a safe distance. If that’s the case?

“Damn it!”


Leeha stopped his feet and raised the Hummingbird.

After all, Luger was not the type to aim. His overwhelming destructive power, lethality, and range was intimidating, but if it was simply aiming skills,Leeha would be better than him!

‘I know because I saw his battle with Kidd. It seems the duration of the skill had already run out-’

Hoooo….

Leeha took a deep breath. When the breathing was rapid, the bell curve shifted.

Haaaa…

If you shake your hands or if you can’t move your fingers delicately, the horizontal line will be misaligned.

‘- It’s okay though. I can do it. I only get one chance!’

At a distance of 200m, the two musketeers aimed their guns at each other.

It looked like a duel in the west, but they were farther apart from each other.

It was similar to a chicken race, but the time to think about going straight or dodging was much shorter.

When Luger, who was in a standing shooting posture, and Leeha, who was in a knee-shooting posture, were in a completely straight line!

“Soul Link.”

Haaaa..

A red light flashed between them.

“Hmm?”

Luger frowned for a moment. A completely unexpected creature appeared in front of him, it was a huge bear.

Rooooar—-!!!

“This is 『 Arcane Bullet 』…? No, it can’t be. It’s a silly joke.”

Luger was not flustered when he saw the bear whose body started to burn.


He slowly pulled the trigger with a slightly annoyed expression.

Because he had already finished aiming anyway.

Boom–!

In the face of his bullet that could even smash the city wall, the field boss Brown Bear was not an obstacle. The armor-piercing bullet ripped through the air and ripped through ‘Kuma’s’ stomach. The height of the hole was exactly the same as what Luger had already aimed at.

If it was a normal bullet nothing would have happened, but if it was his bullet, it would have crushed Leeha’s head who had hidden behind the Brown bear.

Luger opened the quest window and checked, but found that nothing had changed, and he got flustered.

“Why- hmm?”

And he saw.

In the place where the bear’s corpse disappeared as if it had evaporated, there was a figure of a person laying on the ground, and a silver muzzle rose from the green grass.

As soon as he saw the expression on Leeha’s face, who had shifted his body, Luger’s expression distorted for the first time.

‘You’re pretty good.’

Did he summon the bear to block my view, to move to a different position and aim at the same time?

However, it was a fleeting moment.

In addition, if his field of view was limited, Leeha’s skills would also be affected. Just as Luger couldn’t see Leeha because of the Brown bear, Leeha couldn’t see Luger either.

In such a situation, it’s almost an acrobatic act to aim at Luger’s position after rolling using only memory!

Luger immediately moved his arm. There wouldn’t be a threat as long as he covered his head or chest! If he didn’t die in one shot, he could retaliate right away!

“-If that’s what you thought, you have underestimated me.”

And Leeha expected Luger’s thoughts.

Leeha, watching Luger’s action, slowly gave strength to his finger.

At this moment, the only moving part of Leeha’s body was the tip of his index finger.

Baaang—!

The bullet flew past the ground and shattered Luger’s shinbone.

Leeha looked at the wobbling Luger.

‘It’s strange that he didn’t die, but he didn’t fall down, and he didn’t even scream? Is he even human?’

With such great skill, the assimilation rate would not be low, but even after getting hit by Leeha’s bullet, he did not even make a single sound.

His leg bones must have been shattered, but he used his musket as a cane?

In a situation where the shooter felt more fear than the person who got hit, Leeha immediately got up from his position while supporting Kidd.

“Ruun!”

A normal musket can shoot even if the legs were broken. However, while watching Kidd and Luger fight, Leeha knew the weakness of Luger’s gun.

‘He could only shoot if he stood firmly with two feet and held the barrel with both arms. It will be difficult to do it while kneeling or lying down.’

It was possible, but it could also be dangerous. Leeha ran with Kidd and looked back. Looking at Luger, who was still standing, he knew his guess was correct.

A normal human would have made a decision. He wanted to reload quickly and shoot at the gap to kill him, however, Leeha resisted.

Because that man who was barely holding on was not a ‘normal’ human. If he acted out too soon, he may fall into a trap. He could be pretending to be weak, and then suddenly fire another huge bullet.

Leeha ran with all his might while supporting Kidd. Even when the south gate of Dale Castle was visible, he could not be completely relieved.

It was after Kidd’s eyes completely lost focus. Perhaps it was because he reached a level where he could not even see ahead.

“You have to verify your identity-”

“Ha Leeha!”

“Welcome Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Temple! Where is the temple? No, is it a church? Anyway!”

“Yes, if you follow this wall-”

“Thank you!”

Before the guard finished speaking, Leeha spoke and ran. Of course, the Dale Castle connected with an Instant Dungeon also had a temple.

It wasn’t in every city, and in that respect, the castle was not lacking.

“Kidd! Kidd! Are you dead? We’re almost at the temple!”

“…Quick.”

A droopy Kidd leaned against Leeha’s body like dry laundry. Leeha climbed the steps of the temple and showed Kidd to a priest.

“Excuse me! Someone is cursed! Please heal him quickly!”

They were in the territory of NPCs.

After seeing them moving inside with Kidd without hesitation, Leeha could barely breathe.

“Phew… What kind of mess is this?”

Until a while ago, he was happily leveling in the underground waters.

Leeha shook his head and tried squeezing his hand. Leveling up felt like a simple repetitive task. It was even boring.

‘Of course, I haven’t slept for 5 days, and I’ve been working hard, but…’

His sleepy brain woke up instantly. He confronted ‘Piece’ for the first time, in a battle that risked his life.

Leeha couldn’t forget the thrilling stimulation.

Unlike the war between Hwahong and the Byulcho Alliance, it was a battle in which he was the target. There must have been a reason why people were obsessed with duels in western movies. It was different from his fight with Rising Sun in which he could prepare.

He smiled, but at the same time, he felt regret.

‘Besides, I had no choice but to show my cards.’

The force barrier would have been known to most people because of the already circulated video. However, he was the only one in Middle Earth who had the skill Soul Link which summoned the Brown bear ‘Kuma’ who was his soul mate.

Very few people were present when he dealt with the guild master of the Rising Sun, Kyokujitsu, additionally, even Kijung and Ram Hwayeon didn’t know it.

‘But I showed it to Kidd and Luger.’

It couldn’t be helped. Without the Brown bear, Leeha and Kidd would have died.

‘Ah, surviving is important. Surviving is important.’

Wasn’t he prepared to use the skill anyway?

Although it was a rare skill, it should be regarded as a skill with an expiration date, as long as the growth of the linked soul mate, ‘Kuma’, was somewhat limited.

It would be rather beneficial to maximize its effect by maximizing its use when possible, and from that point of view, the Leeha used it at an optimal time.

‘…In fact, it was close. Because he didn’t know it was going to be one shot. One shot was enough to cut a hole in Kuma’s stomach.’

He knew Kuma wouldn’t last long, but he didn’t expect it to die in one blow.

If Leeha had been a little slower, Kuma and Leeha’s head would have exploded at the same time as Luger had intended.

‘The most important thing is why he came. Kidd said Luger was after me. Why? Besides, those guns… Are they the guns of the Three Musketeers?’

He had a lot of questions, but Leeha couldn’t find the answer right away. And the person who could answer Leeha’s questions walked out of the temple after a while.

Unlike before, Kidd, who was completely healed and had a relaxed expression, approached Leeha and held out his hand.

“I have a lot to say, but first I have to thank you.”

“What are you talking about?”

Leeha held Kidd’s hand. It felt good to see Kidd’s pure and sincere expression. After all, didn’t people get closer when they experienced a crisis together?

“However, if I had been in my normal state, I wouldn’t have been beaten by Luger.”

The sight of him scratching his cheek with a smile on his face was enough to make Leeha laugh.

“Haha, that really is your personality. I understand. Anyway, let’s talk a little. What the hell is going on?”

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner: All of the next generation of the three musketeers have appeared. And it looks like they are not friendly with each other.
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“We have to move first.”

“Should we get a seat?”

Kidd glanced at the entrance of the temple. Leeha followed Kidd’s gaze and turned his head. People were sneaking around the temple as if the commotion at Dale Castle had spread.

Most importantly, the problem was related to the words ‘Leeha took someone to the temple’.

“I-indeed. Celebrities have no privacy.”

Leeha sighed. It was difficult to keep secrets in Dale Castle.

“What did you say?”

“No, let’s go. To the capital-”

“Definitely not the capital.”

“Hmm? Ah- I see.”

Shin Nara was there.

She was bent on finding Kidd,

She had instructed the Sacred Knights to report to her as soon as he showed up. It was not easy to avoid their eyes and enter the capital.

“I will use a scroll. If it’s mass teleport, I have one.”

It was Kidd who approached Leeha to take refuge from the start. Leeha thought it was funny to hear Kidd say that he had ‘one’.

The party was already established. Kidd tore the scroll immediately. The two of them disappeared in an instant.

“Oh, they’re gone.”


“Did you see the person next to him?”

“I don’t know who it is. His hat was also weird. Where did he get a cowboy hat like that?”

When the users who gathered in front of the temple were talking one at a time, there was a person who had a flushed face.

“This. I will be in trouble because I have nothing to report.”

Under Ram Hwayeon’s direction, Jachung rushed into the temple, turning back into his original nature. Thanks to his quick movement, he was able to check it with his own eyes.

Leeha rushed into the temple along with Kidd. Those two disappeared after getting treated as if they were being chased…

‘I could roughly imagine what happened… Ugh, I’m going to get in trouble again. If they wanted to talk quietly, they should have used our office.’

Why did a person who had a stake in Dale Castle go to a different place?

Jachung thought he knew Leeha’s characteristics, however, Jachung thought it was quite difficult to understand him in detail.

‘He’s acquainted with Shin Nara as well as Kidd. How did he do it? Additionally, why did he appear alone in the war when he had such connections. What’s going on? Hmm-’ Jachung sighed.

Leeha and Kidd walked Jachung, who was sighing.

– What.. is this? What happened?

– It’s stealth. It’s dangerous to teleport when Luger is nearby.

Instead of mass teleport, Kidd ripped two stealth scrolls. Kidd was so cautious that Leeha couldn’t help but admire him.

‘If Jachung is here, it must mean that Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung had heard the news. Besides, the two of them will know where I am.’

His location will appear in their friend’s window. If Jachung goes back, Ram Hwayeon will ask why Jachung didn’t chase Leeha and send him out again.

‘For now, it’s time to talk.’

Whispering was not what Leeha had in mind.

It was necessary to look at the other person’s attitude and expression in order to pick out the truths and lies.

The place where Leeha and Kidd moved to, was near the corner of the city wall of Dale Castle.


Only after they got behind a tree in a remote place, where users and even guard NPCs did not approach, did Kidd unlock his stealth.

“It will be fine here.”

“Will Luger not follow us all the way here? I heard he might come for me if it were another town.”

“It’s fine with the Dale Knights. Rather, avoiding his eyes by going to a small town is the worst thing you could do. You can’t deter him with just a few guards.”

“Ah…”

He’s more reckless than Leeha had initially thought. He looked pretty noble, but he’s completely reckless.

The only people that Leeha saw attack inside a village so far were the Rising Sun. It sounded like using the word ‘Gachaban’ on Luger because he was on that level.

“Okay, I understand. Let me ask you first. Why are you here? Did you bring that baggage?”

“That’s incorrect. The baggage came first, I came after.”

“Hmm?”

“‘Pierce’ Luger was looking for the hint of the 『 Arcane Sniper 』.”

It was not surprising that Luger was the successor of ‘Pierce’. Leeha focused on the following words.

“What do you mean? Arcane Sniper-”

“It was the nickname you got and spread after the war.”

Leeha nodded.

The war between Hwahong and the Byulcho Alliance made the internet buzz, with all kinds of broadcasts. One musketeer ended the war, 『 Arcane Sniper 』 Ha Leeha.

Leeha was in fact very well known.

“I don’t think he came here to steal my nickname. It’s not something that could get stolen-”

“The 『 Arcane Sniper 』 he is looking for can be stolen. It’s not something like that stupid nickname.”

“Huh? What is it?”


Kidd’s mood changed slightly. Unlike before, his eyes were wary of Leeha.

And Leeha knew the reason for Kidd’s behavior. Because he had that expression when he spoke at the academy before.

It was the same atmosphere when Kidd spoke the word rival.

“I don’t know exactly. Whether it’s an achievement or title. But you can see its literal interpretation. Those who have qualifications could shoot 『 Arcane Bullet – Magic Bullets 』.”

Hearing Kidd’s words, Leeha felt vaguer. It wasn’t known whether it was an achievement or a title.

‘Besides, unlike his nickname, it sounded like it could get taken away…’

A vague feeling came to . didn’t know it before, but knw now. Because there was a time when he got a similar kind of Achievement when he killed Agromni Igor.

‘The achievement will disappear when I get killed by Igor. Is it also the case with Arcane Sniper? An achievement that can be taken by others?’

Leeha thought about it for a while, but another question popped into mind.

“But what is Magic Bullet? Didn’t Luger’s shot already look like a Magic Bullet? Do you know anything about that, Kidd? You should be pretty familiar with guns.”

He thought that Kidd, who passed Browless’s test within 3 days, shouldn’t be ignorant. At Leeha’s words, Kidd shook his head.

“The armor-piercing rounds and grenades were only one of his main rounds, they were not magic bullets.”

“…Oh!”

It was crazy, you mean those were regular rounds, isn’t that bullshit?

It was absurd for Leeha, who could only fire grapeshots by splitting an iron bullet into 20 pieces.

Anyway, he didn’t know what magic bullets were, but Leeha could roughly estimate their worth by looking at how Luger coveted them even though he could shoot huge bullets.

“So are you saying that Luger was looking for me because I had the title Arcane Sniper? And he wanted to take it away from me?

“Yes.”

“And were you here to rescue me from Luger?”

“I tried to tell Luger that he misunderstood but he did not listen to me. It is hard to talk to him.”

“Huuu.”

As hard as you.

A smirk leaked out of Leeha, but what Kidd said was probably true. At least because Kidd wasn’t a guy who started shooting all the time.

“You must finish your quest. There’s no time.”

“I was about to finish it. Now… It’s time to take the test.”

“Be careful. The moment you become one of the next generation of the Three Musketeers, Luger will come after you.”

“Haha, the rumors have spread and somehow he knew where I was, but it’s okay now~! Kidd, you know that right? I hide pretty well.”

Leeha thought the rumors spread through the community and that was how he was found. However, Kidd shook his head.

“We are inseparable. If you become one of the next generation of the Three Musketeers, your position will be shared with us.”

“Huh? What does that mean? Like adding a friend?”

Kidd didn’t nod. Rather, he shook his head.

“You need to be prepared.”

Seeing him answering as he swallowed, Leeha’s back went cold.

Was it more detailed than the friend’s window? Was it not the approximate position, but the exact coordinates or something similar?

“I think it was rather fortunate that I met Luger.”

“What do you mean?”

“The bullets that Luger fired-…”

Leeha fiddled with the Hummingbird. It wasn’t iron bullets and black powder. It wasn’t like the muskets of the 17th or 18th century.

“-It was a great hint for me.”

Finding out that he could ‘make’ weapons that transcended Middle Earth was a huge profit.

Kidd immediately understood Leeha’s words.

Looking at Leeha’s smile, Kidd smiled too.

“You’ll know when you get ‘Bullseye’ anyway.”

“Hmm, that’s right. Ah! Why did you not use it, Kidd? Something like that grenade…”

“‘Pierce’ and ‘Rapid Fire’ are different. What I got, the 『Crimson Gecko』, isn’t such a dull and ignorant shotgun.”

Kidd opened his coat and showed his gun. Four crimson-colored pistols that seemed to absorb light.

‘Gecko… do you mean geckos, those little lizards? Crimson Geckos?’

Cough, the name.

Leeha thought it would be difficult to implement a pistol that looked like a revolver.

‘No, wait.’

What does it look like?

“Wait! Wait a minute! Show it to me again!”

“It’s not possible.”

Leeha doubted his eyes. It resembled a pistol. But it wasn’t like his musket pistol!

The weapon that hung from Kidd’s waist was-…

“Damn it! Show me quickly! I, oh! I even revealed my secret skill to save you! It’s not fair, what do you mean rivals! You should have the spirit of fair play!”

Leeha took the dying Kidd to the temple and barely saved him, Leeha murmured for a long time and Kidd eventually gave up.

“Phew… All right. Let’s go.”

“Huh? Outside the gates?”

“You cannot use skills in the town.”

“But Luger-”

“He’s outside the Fibiel Kingdom. Maybe because he knew that he couldn’t beat me when I got healed.”

Kidd shrugged his shoulders and scratched his cheek. Leeha couldn’t hate Kidd even when Kidd pretended to be strong.

After walking out of the west gate for a while, when the monsters started to appear, Leeha opened his mouth.

“There’s a wolf over there, try your skill on it.”

“Wolves are weak.”

“Of course, it would be weak. I just want to see your skills and what your weapon looks like.”

Leeha was taken aback. Did he want to use it on a strong monster to show how strong he is? Leeha tried to grumble, but Kidd didn’t care and hurried his steps.

As long as he decided to show it, he would decide the target!

“I don’t think you need to show how great it is- huh?”

A group of people entered the grumbling Leeha’s eyes.

Black robes, overturned hoods and humans of similar size approached with increasing speed.

Similar faces, and same skinheads in a hoodie. Leeha was able to guess their identities at once.

“Czar…?”

What day is it today?

At a glance, there were twenty of them. No one would be happy to see people running at them with weapons in their hands.

“Damn it, Kidd! I will go first.”

He quickly started to load the Hummingbird, but there was someone who stood in front of him.

“This should be good.”

“Huh? What are you doing?”

“I’ll show you one more time.”

Kidd stepped forward. His coat fluttered.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:
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Arcane Sniper - Chapter 178

				
Translated by: xLordFifth

Edited by: Aadhitya

Edited by: Spitfirus

“W-What- No, wait, Kidd! Do you know them?”

“I don’t know.”

“Then why! Czar is on a different level than the Rising Sun trash!”

When Leeha saw Kidd calmly speak the words ‘I don’t know’, he got frustrated. He also understood his desire to act arrogant. His pride might have been hurt because he only showed how he got beaten by ‘Pierce’.

Additionally, he may have been even more upset when Kidd saw Leeha shoot Luger, while he was getting ignored.

‘However, these are not the kind of guys that could be caught half-heartedly because of your damaged pride! They have a minimum level of 150. They are different from Rising Sun, whose highest level was less than 150!’

Kidd’s confidence was obvious. Rapid-fire defeated Rising Sun in one stroke.

Leeha knew what he saw. He was already surprised adequately by his lightning-like ability to reload four pistols in less than 5 seconds.

Still, Czar was different.

‘I have to contact Hwahong, it’s not too late yet. I’m a little far from Dale Castle, but they should be able to get here within 15 minutes.’

It was not far. Normal guild members should be able to arrive within 15 to 20 minutes. If it was Ram Hwajung, she might come within 5.

Leeha quickly opened his friends’ window.

Ram Hwajung’s location was ‘unknown’, which meant that she was in an unmarked dungeon!

‘Damn it, even Ram Hwayeon-, no I don’t have time for this! If Ram Hwajung is not available, it would be too late anyway.’

Leeha immediately lifted the Hummingbird. He had to think about running away. After ‘blocking’ some of their movements, it would be best to leave with Kidd while they are in a mess.

“Delicate Hand Movement, snipe.”

They were 340m away. Wind speed?


The nearby trees and branches are shaking.

He could hear the rustling of leaves so it should be around 8 to 9m per second. It wasn’t calm. It was enough to change the trajectory of the bullet.

Now they were 310m away. He didn’t have much time. He was with Kidd, but there were 20 people with a minimum level of 140. Even if one shot-one kill was not possible, he had to shoot.

‘That is the limit-’

300m.

Click, Leeha pulled the trigger.

Baaang—!

The Czar guild members moved like a sword. As they ran, they did not shout to raise their spirit. They were quiet but fast. They ran as if they had no interest in anything other than capturing their target, Leeha.

“Keuk!”

Ttak-!

Blood spurted from the thigh of one of the runners.

Even though the lightweight chain armor came down to the thigh and covered it, the skin was pierced!

However, from Leeha’s perspective, the man looked like he had a huge amount of health that he did not die in a single shot after getting hit in the torso.

The captain who led the first and second squad of this special mission looked at the person who got hit for a moment but did not stop.

“Squad 2, block the escape route, squad 1, move according to the assigned mission. The goal is to secure Ha Leeha and eliminate all obstacles. Estimated mission time, 3 minutes 30 seconds-”

From the moment they came to capture Ha Leeha, they were prepared to make some sacrifices. They had already expected it from a sniper that could shoot from an overwhelming distance.

The person with an injured thigh left the ranks, but that was all. After finishing his treatment with a potion, he would run towards where he should be positioned. It must have been a dreadful sight from Leeha and Kidd’s perspective.

“It would end before Hwahong could move.”

“Da, sir.”

Pashi


As soon as they finished answering, Czar’s guild members scattered all over the place.

Leeha’s muzzle, which was far away, quickly followed the movement of one of them and produced white smoke. And ddak-!

“Ack!”

The side of the guy, who was looking to the side, was hit.

As the force was applied in a twisted direction, his body, which was unable to withstand it, spun around and fell to the ground. In other words, it wasn’t an instakill, but a critical hit.

It was a critical hit, and the Czar’s guild member died in one shot.

Of course, Czar did not care for their colleagues. Czar’s guild members made a detour around Leeha and Kidd. In addition to their movements to block the flank and rear, an assault squad was also rushing from the front.

They all had warrior-type jobs. They were like a group of doppelgangers, with similar looks, items, levels, and they even coordinated without talking to each other.

Bang–!

Their distance had been narrowed to 210m again. One of the rushing assault squad members flew backward.

As the distance got closer, the power of the bullet was retained. And in terms of blocking power, the iron ball bullet which could penetrate the body was inevitably stronger.

However, there were no screams.

No response. The only thing that could be heard was the mechanical steps.

Step, step, step.

The way Leeha shot was silent unrealistic, therefore even more terrifying.

Leeha pulled the trigger once more.

As soon as he pulled it, another Czar guild member fell and turned gray. The distance was 140m. So far, Leeha was able to kill three of them.

Regardless of whether they got hit or not, the troops who prioritized the movement of the team were the most difficult to deal with.

His greatest advantage was long-distance shooting.

‘I couldn’t use any fear and confusion. Damn it, they are too close to shoot now. They’re moving too fast!’


The rushing assault troops shook their bodies from side to side. When the distance was far, the shaking was not a big deal, but as they got closer, the muzzle shook as it followed their movement.

When they were only 80 m away from the assault troops, Leeha bit his lip and pulled the trigger for the last time.

One more member of Czar’s guild fell, but their eyes were fixed.

“Begin the operation!”

Czar’s captain raised his voice for the first time. It was a situation where even the 2nd squad members who made a detour and were located on the side and behind ran towards Leeha and Kidd!

‘I can’t call Kuma, and I can’t use the Force Barrier!’

Those were good skills, but their cooldown was 24 hours. Those skills could save Leeha’s life once a day.

He had to use both of those great skills in order to inflict wounds on the monster Luger.

It was only natural that Leeha would feel impatient. It had now reached a point where Czar’s facial expressions and wriggling muscles could be seen. They were coming from the front, back, left, and right!

“Kidd! Use whatever you have, quickly-”

“Do you know the song… Dust in the wind?”

Kidd, whose head had been facing the ground, looked ahead.

“-What? What song?”

“Hmmmm… Sandstorms often come to my hometown. It’s a freak of nature that wipes out all life of the weak…”

Is he crazy? He was weird when I first saw him, but now it’s even worse?!

Leeha manage to hold back his thoughts. Kidd’s face, who was humming and trudging forward, looked somewhat happy.

His expressionless face, which was both a bit fierce and sharp, had already disappeared.

Smiling, he stepped forwards and opened his coat.

As the fluttering, dark red coat turned, Leeha quickly looked at Kidd’s waist.

‘Right, that’s it…Crimson pistols. Obviously, it should be a musket. However, that round chamber between the barrel and the tumbler…? That’s a shape that doesn’t belong to a musket, is it not?

“Capture Ha Leeha-”

“…….”

“-!”

Kidd whispered quietly.

The moment the four pistols emitted deep red light, they were no longer just musket pistols.

Leeha looked at the four pistols bouncing from Kidd’s waist to his chest.

“No way…”

They were revolvers.

Kidd danced as he held the four revolvers in turn.

It was a dance of death.

There was a person who had been chasing from the back. As Leeha predicted, Jachung, who had immediately started to search for Leeha after getting chewed on by Ram Hwayeon, was waiting while hiding.

He knew that the running people were from Czar.

Because Ram Hwajung told him about it, he was prepared to some extent. However, at this moment, he was not sure if he should act immediately.

Although they have already met once, Czar and Hwahong were not completely antagonistic with each other yet. Should he fight them?

No, there are still cities to buy in the future. There was no need to make more enemies.

‘In the worst case, I will rescue Ha Leeha-nim and run away.’

Watching the situation while hiding, he would only make his move when Leeha about to die.

If Leeha and Kidd won against them, there was no need to step forward. That would be the best outcome for Hwahong.

Although there were a lot of Czar guild members, Jachung did not find it amusing.

It was not simply because he was old that he was Ram Hwayeon’s assistant and vice-guild master. It was because the of the company’s work and Middle Earth was not easy.

‘It’s impossible to kill everyone, but I can protect Leeha. I must give up on Kidd-’

Another scenario popped up in Jachung’s head. Should I protect Kidd?

If I can save Kidd and recruit an outsider like , he would be great strength.

However, he soon shook his head. Thinking about Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, his primary duty was to unconditionally save Ha Leeha.

‘After all, if I protect Ha Leeha, he will naturally become involved with Kidd.’

As Jachung watched Leeha and Kidd while thinking about various things, Czar’s guild members were already getting near them.

When everyone started to rush towards them, there were still 17 people left!

‘I have to act now, if I am a step too late I won’t be able to save Ha Lee-’ However, Jacheongs body didn’t move. He could instinctively feel danger.

When Jachung noticed Kidd’s coat was flapping, he couldn’t help but exclaim, forgetting that he was in hiding.

“What is this…”

Each time the trigger was pulled, the pistol’s chamber rotated. One shot after another.

Why did he pretend like he was reloading? As if in ridicule, the revolver shot 6 bullets in all directions.

Four such revolvers.

Kidd’s movements were relentless, he quickly pulled the trigger as he alternately held the revolvers floating in the air with the power of mana.

The Czar’s guild members were already within 50m, as they held their weapons, they looked similar to moving targets.

He held two revolvers with both hands, and then he switched to different revolvers after shooting. Shoot, spin, spin, shoot.

Each bullet was aimed at different people, but they hit similar locations.

There was a slight difference, but the bullet marks always went the forehead’.

If those 24 bullets fell on a single person, there would have been 24 holes on their forehead, and their eyebrows might have been pierced.

“Kuwaah… what-”

Blood leaked from his forehead and ran down his eyelids. The Czar’s captain tried to swing his swords towards Leeha, but his body refused to move.

“…Phew…”

And the last person turned gray.

It took about 5 seconds for all 24 bullets to be shot, which was terribly accurate and fast.

‘He probably knew that he wouldn’t beat me if I got healed.’

What he said about Luger running because of him wasn’t a lie.

Kidd quickly caught the four revolvers in the air. Bullet casings spilled out of the chamber, but even those casings were put into his pocket.

He made sure that there wouldn’t be a trace of the weapons he used.

“It’s been a while since I used bullets…I don’t think it’s bad.”

He even scratched his cheek with an embarrassed expression. It looked like he was asking, ‘Did I do well? I’m strong, right?’

(To be continued…)
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He couldn’t say anything as he looked at Kidd who was scratching his cheek. If he could just keep his mouth , it would have been fine.

In order to not show his surprise, he knew that he had to maintain a poker face, however, his body did not follow.

“How…?”

“What do you mean how?”

“How can there be a revolver? Revolver- no, wait. Something doesn’t make sense.”

Leeha’s confused head wasn’t in order. After the battle, Leeha saw Kidd tidying up. He took the ‘cas’.

“Middle Earth- isn’t it in the 17th century? Doesn’t it look a lot like the 18th century? But a revolver involves a ‘primer’, which means it should have at least ‘mini-ethane’, in addition to the ‘steel wire system’ which must be built?! Isn’t that advanced technology-”

“Are you saying that even after witnessing Luger?”

“-no…”

Kidd shook his head, asking what he was talking about.

Right. It had already been confirmed through Luger that there were gunpowder bullets, rather than simple iron or lead bullets.

Aside from the armor-piercing rounds, it was because he was using the form of a ‘grenade’.

It had to be acknowledged that it went beyond the level of simply using a primer.

“When it comes to advanced technology, Luger’s gun is of advanced technology. 『 Crimson Geckos 』 is nothing compared to 『 Cobalt Blue Python 』

『 Cobalt Blue Python 』?”

“That is the name of Luger’s weapon.”

A cobalt blue color that could only be seen in the deepest part of the lake. If Kidd’s weapon was ‘Crimson Gecko’, then Luger’s weapon was a ‘Cobalt Python’.


“Right, Luger! Why was it in the musket form when you fought Luger? They looked the same, but every 5 seconds-”

“It’s a skill.”

“Huh?”

“At that time, I had zero mana, and got hit by Luger.”

“Ah…”

Kidd’s explanation was quick, but Leeha could understand how his musket was used. However, if he used the skill, did it feel like the weapons were transformed with the power of ‘advanced technology’?

‘At that time, he couldn’t use the skill because he didn’t have any MP. So, it meant that he could only use it as a normal musket.’

In other words, even though reloading four musket-pistols every 5 seconds was quite surprising to Leeha, from Kidd’s perspective, it was so slow that could not really be called ‘Rapid Fire’.

Because if he used his skill and changed them into a revolver, he could easily shoot 24 rounds within 5 seconds.

“Then, what about me? What will happen to my weapon? 『Black Bass』. Will it also transform when I use a skill?”

“I don’t know either. You’ll find out once you complete the quest. This is the first time I heard the name, black Bess.”

Kidd nodded with his expression saying yes.

“Cough, I shouldn’t have told you. No, you guys have reptiles… they’re snake-related names, why is mine, bess? I thought it was Bess from Elizabeth…”

A gecko is a lizard, and a python is a snake. But what about Bess?

The name of a fish?

“Are you asking me?”

“Phew, no. It was frustrating, so I thought about it for a bit.”

Leeha sighed heavily. Right, it was not a question that could be answered by asking Kidd. After he completed the quest, Leeha would hear it from Browless.

However, after seeing Luger and Kidd’s ridiculous skills, he was embarrassed and only spoke little.

‘’Pierce’ and ‘Rapid Fire’…. I wondered how it works, it’s thanks to ridiculous technology.’


From the technological point of view, it was huge, but in terms of lethality and other aspects, it was nothing short of impossible.

Anyway, this was Middle Earth. It was a game where there were people who could fly in the sky, summon blizzards, drop thunderbolts, and rule over space.

Compared to that, a revolver seemed cute.

‘Was the Three Musketeers like this in the past? Headmaster Browless-’

Leeha remembered the words he spoke in the Academy.

As his business was over, Kidd, who was preparing to leave and Browless seemed to overlap.

“Ah! Headmaster Browless taught me about assassination, you also know it right?”

“Of course.”

“But you assassinated someone using that revolver?”

As the conversation led to Browless, Kidd’s expression brightened a little. Leeha guessed that he was not the only one who liked the NPC.

“You must be good at basic musket skills, not to mention… When it comes to assassination, you should have heard of it.”

“What?”

Cough, Kidd cleared his throat.

“If there are no witnesses, it is an assassination.”

“Wow..”

It didn’t make sense for a moment, but as soon as Kidd imitated Browless’s voice, he noticed it. It meant that he shot and killed everyone before reaching the target. What kind of assassination was that?!

‘Well, he’s at least able to handle four revolvers better than Kidd. Even if there are twenty or thirty people, they would not be able to stop him.’

As Leeha’s laugh got louder, Kidd laughed as well.

“Hurry.”

“I will. There are those who use cannons or revolvers, and then there are those who suffer using muskets. My stomach hurts, so I should finish it soon.”


Although he didn’t explicitly say it was a quest, Kidd understood what Leeha meant.

Maybe because they stood shoulder to shoulder, he felt that they were somewhat closer. Kidd’s gentle gaze towards Leeha also played a part.

“Well, I have to go now.”

“Ah! By the way, what about the guns? Will it change? I mean, how did you get the bullets?”

It wasn’t sold in stores. In response to Leeha’s question, Kidd rummaged through his bag.

“…It’s a secret.”

And he pulled out a scroll.

“Wait! Tell me before you go!”

Riip, Kidd decisively tore the scroll. His figure disappeared in an instant.

“He’s treating me like a rival only at times like this. We were laughing just now… what a terrible guy.”

Leeha grumbled, but it wasn’t that he did not get anything. Didn’t the blacksmith in the capital already check it out?

‘He said I had to go to a dwarf to make a steel wire.’

Dwarves live in the mountains. They had a mole-like ability that enabled them to roam the whole mountain range in search of better minerals and gems.

‘Do they dig the mountain with their hands or with a pickaxe? Or use It was possible that they have the technology to make steel wires, but don’t have the ability to handle gunpowder.

Leeha had a rough outline of what he had to do next.

“Okay, first of all, the quest.”

Let’s finish Elizabeth’s Will 』! After organizing his thoughts, Leeha looked around and loaded his musket.

Shudder and opened his mouth while pointing his musket into the air.

“You have been listening, right? I don’t know who you are, but you should come out. Three, two, one!–”

“W-wait, why did you count so quickly?”

Shwaak, the empty space gradually changed color. Leeha recognized the person.

“…Jachung-nim?”

“That… Hello, Ha Leeha-nim.”

Jachung awkwardly bowed.

The strange vibe he felt before. Leeha guessed that it was someone from Hwahong.

He saw Jachung at the temple, but there’s no way Ram Hwayeon, who was in Dale Castle, would easily miss Leeha.

It must have been Jachung who hid and chased after him.

‘It’s rather good. He must have heard my conversation with Kidd.’

In addition to that. He must have also seen Kidd’s skill. Leeha lowered his gun, which was directed at Jachung with a bewildered expression.

“Why were you behind us like that? Whoever sees you might think we are enemies. Don’t you think so?”

“T-that, haha, I’m sorry. When I heard that Czar had appeared, I tried to rescue Ha Leeha-nim but stopped…”

“Ahh… rescue, I see. Rescue.”

What kind of rescue was it that you were hiding until now?!

When the word ‘rescue’ was emphasized, Jachung had an embarrassed expression.

Leeha knew that Jachung was not an idiot. And that was fortunate.

“What would happen if Ram Hwayeon found out that I caught you like this?”

“Hmm?”

“If I told her that I don’t trust Hwahong and we can no longer be on the same side… It wouldn’t be good, right?”

When Leeha said it with a sly smile, Jachung’s eyes widened.

As Leeha predicted, Jachung was not stupid. There was no way he would not understand what Leeha’s words meant.

It wasn’t just an issue with strength. What if Ha Leeha, who Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung were ‘fond of’, thinks badly of Hwahong and distanced himself from them? What if it became Jachung’s fault?

‘I would become a real X!’

It wasn’t just a problem in Middle Earth. His position in the Ram Long group would also be…!

Jachung rummaged through his bag and quickly approached Leeha.

“Ha, haha, of course, there’s no way that would be good, Ha Leeha-nim! Ah, is there anything you need? It would be a big deal if Czar came again and disturbed Ha Leeha-nim. For now, are a few scrolls that could let you return to Dale Castle immediately… and-”

Jachung took out an item from his bag.

“Hey, what is this… It’s okay, it’s okay.”

“Haha, please take it. Please take it.”

“Forget it, I don’t need that, keep it.”

“Please, please, please accept it, Ha Leeha-nim.”

Jachung was almost begging as he held Leeha’s hands.

Leeha quietly refus while saying, ‘you shouldn’t do this’, pretending to refuse, and stuffing it into his bag.

“If you ever need anything- call me whenever you come to Dale Castle.”

“Jachung-nim is busy. Even if I ask for help, you wouldn’t have the time.”

“What are you talking about? Director- no Ram Hwayeon-nim and other members of Hwahong are grateful to Ha Leeha-nim. I clear my schedule and come to help.”

As Jachung said this with a smile, Leeha smiled as well. Alright, good.

“Then I have one request.”

“What? Yes! Tell me!”

Leeha remembered Elizabeth’s quest. There was a hint of how Browless would proceed.

He said he would aim at a target the size of an adult male at a distance of 444m.

It would be good if the target was a monster, but wouldn’t the efficiency improve if it was a ‘real’ target

However, it was impossible to explain all of this to Jachung.

Although he walked together with Hwahong, they did not share everything. Even more so, it was not a direct conversation with Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung.

After much deliberation, Leeha’s ‘request’ was quite simple.

“Give me your head.”

“…What?”

“Give me a head, to shoot.”

“What? I understand-”

“Literally. Don’t you like it?”

What? could not understand Leeha’s words at all.

Give a head? Shoot? Jachung moved his head quickly, but the words that followed…

“Hey, if you don’t like it, there’s nothing I can do about it. Is Ram Hwayeon still in Dale Castle?”

When Jachung tilted his head and did not answer, Leeha’s expression . In such a situation, Jachung only had one choice.

“Ahhh! Ahhhh!! I’ll do it! I will do it! Head or whatever! I will!”

And he realized that his thoughts on Ha Leeha were quite wrong.

He thought he had a lot of talent, he was kind and stupid, but what the hell was devilish threat!

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

This is an instance of Leeha blackmailing an elderly to get what he wants.
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– Step back! Go back a little more.

– All right.

Hearing Leeha’s whisper, Jachung stepped back. Step by step as he walked, dust rose. The Eagle’s Eyes skill determined Leeha’s distance from Jachung.

‘Hmm, this is enough…’

It was definitely far. When Leeha zoomed out to the original vision magnification, Jachung could only be seen as a ‘colored dot’.

One could say that 400m and 440m were only 40m apart, but 40m was not short. It was a distance one had to run for more than 6 seconds at a sprint.

– Okay, you can stop at that spot now!

– Y-yes!

Jachung went still at Leeha’s whisper. And Leeha shouted at the personnel who were waiting next to him.

“This much! Check the distance! Check the distance!”

“…Okay!”

Their cloak was engraved with Hwahong’s guild mark. The magician, who was suddenly called by Jachung while hunting, became Leeha’s training assistant.

“How long do I have to do this?”

The magician grumbled as he untangled the tape measure that was over 400m long. He untied the heavy rope and ran for a long time towards Jachung’s position.

Tik, the place where the tape measure stopped did not reach Jachung’s position.

“It’s over 9000!!!!”

“Come again?”


“I mean it’s over 400m-”

– It’s over 400m.

Jachung was 7 to 8 steps away from where the tape measure ended.

‘This. Okay.’

Leeha frowned. He wanted to quickly shoot and hit the target.

However, as mentioned before the target should be ‘444m away’, and it’s hell-level difficulty.

‘This is driving me crazy. I thought I would get it right this time. It should be roughly 450m. Phew.’

He had already learned how to sense the distance for over an hour. The huge errors gradually began to lessen, but it was difficult to fix the 4-5m error.

“Well, it’s crazy to shoot with the naked eye without any assistance.”

The scope that Leeha used in the military was a laser-type electronic rangefinder.

Even Leeha, who liked shooting even before using a sniper rifle and who had a very good sense of distance, still had difficulty measuring the distance of 400 to 500m without any assistance.

Other people wouldn’t believe that he only had around 4 to 5m error through simple observation.

“Hey, Ha Leeha, how long do I have to do this…”

“Why? Are you busy? Do you want to go?”

“No! No, no. No way. curious.”

Jachung waved his hands and head, shaking.

As the vice-guild master of Hwahong was doing this, the magician from Hwahong was not able to say anything.

“If you’re measuring the distance, why don’t you use a different method?”

“How?”

“Something like a telescope…”


“Haha, that’s right. I could use a telescope.”

It didn’t matter if it was a normal sight. It wasn’t like Leeha did not think of it.

If the distance was 400m and 500m, it was possible to do with optical measurement rather than electronic laser measurement.

‘Even with the PSO-1 scope of Russian SVD-Dragunov, it could loosely measure up to 1000m. But his Eagle’s Eye skill was already at that level…’

In the end, even if he used a scope, some degree of error was bound to occur.

And Leeha already reduced the error to 4 to 5m using the Eagle’s Eye skill.

In fact, it was a situation where the effect of the scope was maximized.

“Why don’t you just mark the telescope?”

“Well. It’s because my eyes are more accurate now than when marked.”

PSO-1 is also scoped. When the target was 1.7m tall, he could accurately hit the targets at 200m, 400m, 600m, 800m and 1000m.

Just like when Leeha used Eagle’s Eye.

‘However, hitting at 444m is the problem, if it was 400 or 500m, I could have done it already. I would prefer it if the target was 450m away! All I have to do is set the target between 450m-500m, and practice firing.’

As Leeha sighed and exhaled, Jachung tilted his head.

“I mean… why don’t you make a scope that is marked at 444m? I don’t know because I am not familiar with this, but is it impossible?”

“…What?”

And sometimes the answer comes from a beginner.

It is difficult for experts to expand their thinking because they are already locked in a frame, but for beginners, there no such restrictions.

“It’s not simply marking the distance…”

“Ah…! Should I make a dedicated scope for 444m distance?”

“If it helps, then it should be fine-”


In other words, a one-time item for this quest?!

Seeing Leeha’s eyes expand, Jachung’s expression also brightened. He had to do his best to help Leeha because he did not want Ram Hwayeon to hear about his ‘mistake’.

“Jachung-nim.”

“Yes! Please tell me, Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Is there a Hwahong guild warehouse in Dale Castle’?”

“Hmm?”

The magician next to Jachung glared at him. His expression looked like he was saying, ‘Aren’t you increasing our work by talking nonsense?’

Making a scope is easier than one would think if they had the proper material. Even the material was nothing special.

These days, there are videos from Wi-Tube, so that’s all I have to say. Of course, there is a lot of work to do in terms of accuracy..’

It’s different from a toy. It took several days to create the lens, and a few trial and errors to get the perfect distance measurement.

On top of the Hummingbird the scope, which had been created using the material from Hwahong’s guild warehouse as well as the efforts of NPCs, such as blacksmiths, carpenters, and jewelers Dale Castle was shining brightly.

It was not an exaggeration to say that it was a sniper rifle just by looking at its appearance as the scope was mounted on a long silver-gray musket.

“Phew… great.”

Leeha placed his eye about 5 cm away from the eyepiece. As with a regular scope, if one closed their eyes and attached them to the lens, the recoil may crush one’s eye.

“It’s in good condition.”

Leeha was satisfied by the state of the scope. He wondered if he could make a simple scope. Most importantly, he knew that he could use ‘optical science’ Middle Earth.

‘When Hwahong fought Dragon Knights and Seomgwang, Ram Hwajung showed it to me.’

She used ice magic and refraction to take advantage of the light and made an image of herself in the air.

Compared to Ram Hwajung, who could do magical things, a scope was child’s play.

– A little further back… Stop!

Leeha whispered to Jachung the scope.

Instead of a simple crosshair…

When the 175cm Jachung was 444m away he perfectly fit at the center of the scope.

“Check the distance!”

“Okay!”

The assistant mage quickly measured the distance with a tape measure. Cli-cli-click, the rope loosened from Leeha to Jachung.

Tik~ When the tape measure was released, Jachung and the assistant bumped into each other.

It was at the level where one could at least say that there was no visual error. Even if one measured carefully, it would probably be less than 15 cm from where the tape measure was released to where Jachung was.

At the 444m distance, the assistant waved his arms.

“Yeeees!!”

Leeha clenched his fist, so far, the success rate was 100%! They all 10, which Jachung placed randomly at the distance of 444m!

-Place the target and go.

– All right.

Jachung received Leeha’s whisper and put a 1.7 high wooden board on the ground. Looking at the target with a head attached to it, Leeha fixed his breathing.

‘Phew… If I had made the scope sooner… no, it wouldn’t have had any use even if I made it earlier.’

It was different from the 『Rapid Fire』 test. 『 Accuracy 』 meant that even if he succeeded in making a certain item, he still had to hit the target in the end.

In the past, when it was difficult to hit the target at 400m if he had gotten a scope for some reason, he might have wasted all three chances.

‘It’s okay. I’m not in a hurry. If I complete the quest, I will become strong too.’

And after he became strong?

He could get a lot of gold in Middle Earth. Like ‘Pierce’ Luger or ‘Rapid fire’ Kidd.

‘Of course, I simply don’t want gold. I need 20,000 gold. 2 billion won in cash… I have to earn that much.’

He wanted to earn money as fast as possible to fix his lower body.

Leeha calmed his mind when he saw Jachung moving over the scope. He shouldn’t get excited. It was a luxury and arrogance to look at the target and think about other things.

There was an old joke, ‘Do you know how it feels to shoot a person for the first time?’

It was the first words that he had heard from his instructor when he was training as a sniper. Ten elite trainees were selected from the army. ten people gave different answers.

Guilt, flushed, , … The instructor shook his head at the answers.

And when Leeha answered, everyone in the room laughed. Except for the instructor.

Of the 10 people, only Leeha answered correctly.

‘When the instructor said that it was the correct answer, the faces of my classmates were a sight to see.’

Leeha, with a slight smile, click~ pulled the trigger.

When the loud gunshot resounded across the plains, he remembered the ‘correct answer’.

‘The first thing you feel when you shoot a person is the gun recoil. Hehe.’

Perhaps that joke was the essence of a sniper.

The only way to become a great sniper was to rule out all emotions.

Leeha laughed while watching Jachung and the assistant make a fuss near the target.

It wasn’t surprising that there was a hole in the middle of the target.

***

“Thank you, Jachung.”

“It was nothing. I am happy that I could help, even in a small way.”

It was over, finally! Jachung spoke calmly, but in his mind, he hoped that Leeha would go away quickly. Not to mention hunting, he helped Leeha so much that it was difficult to work.

There were also the items stolen from Hwahong’s guild warehouse. Although they were not expensive, Jachung still had a hard time getting them out.

“Will you help me out again next time?”

“Huh? N-next time…”

“Hey, what’s wrong? Will you help?”

“Uh…uh…”

If you have a conscience, you should do it in moderation!

However, Jachung could not say such a thing to Leeha. It was also because he had already changed his mind to some extent.

Shin Nara, Kidd, and Hwahong, Jachung thought that he was an opportunist at first, but he realized that Leeha did not make use of other people that way.

‘That’s why he didn’t want to rely on Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung. He only trusts his skills.’

Can it be called good? Perhaps it was closer to the cold-hearted side. He did not know Leeha personally, but Jachung had a vague understanding of his social life.

’It’s because he has the skills to match such a lone wolf-like personality…’

It was worth it because Leeha had the skill to make a scope at the word ‘telescope’, and even had the skill to snipe at such an enormous distance.

“Hahaha, I’m kidding. If I need additional help, I will call Hwahong.”

“Phew, it would be better if we could help Ha Leeha-nim.”

“What? You’re being straightforward.”

“Because you want it straight.”

Leeha looked at the unfamiliar Jachung and smiled. Why is the person who made it obvious that he didn’t like it suddenly smiling?

“Eek, what’s wrong with you! Besides, I’m not such a good-looking man, and I don’t want to hear those words from a man in his 40s.”

“Is that so? Anyway, Ha Leeha is…”

“Huh?”

Jachung, who was talking, looked around. It was inside Dale castle. He didn’t know what the girls would do if he continued this kind of talk.

“No, no. Then, take care.”

“Yes. Thank you.”

Jachung raised his voice to Leeha, who was heading to the warp gate after saying goodbye as if he remembered something.

“Ah! That, bess.”

“What?”

“The talk about snakes and lizards. The one that Kidd and talked about.”

『 Crimson Geckos 』, 『 Cobalt Blue Python 』, and the one that Leeha had not yet obtained, 『 Black Bass 』. Jachung remembered the conversation Kidd and Leeha had a few days ago.

“Ah, yes. What about it?”

“I’m telling this because Ha Leeha-nim has not tried fishing before, but Bass is a tyrant in freshwater. When you open its stomach, I heard that snakes and lizards could appear in its stomach.”

“Fishing? What are you talking about? Who fishes?”

When Leeha tilted his head, Jachung laughed out loud.

At this time, he thought he knew why people liked Leeha.

“No, it’s nothing. See you next time.”

“What? Okay. See you next time, Jachung-nim!”

Leeha separated with Jachung and warped to Aelstock. At the place he left, Jachung stretched out with a pleasant smile.

“He’s an interesting guy. I have one more thing to report to the president.”

(To be continue…)
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“I thought it would be bright, but it’s dark.”

Leeha smiled as he opened the door to the academy. The dark hallway was all too familiar now as the blackout curtain blocked the sunlight.

“Hello, director- huh?”

There was no one in the room. At that moment, Leeha heard a gunshot.

Bang–!

“Oh?”

Gunshot at the Musketeer Academy was normal in a way. Everyone had to train, do quests, and raise their skill level.

However, musketeer players were rare in Middle Earth.

‘Oh, great. Are they new?’

The low-level man holding a musket while moaning at the training ground couldn’t help but feel strange. It was because of Browless’s appearance with his arms crossed and sharp eyes.

‘It’s been a while. That look in his eyes and the way he speaks makes me recall how nervous I was before.’

Now that there were other people under Browless’s tutelage like Leeha and Kidd, Leeha somehow missed his strict nature that he would not be able to experience again. Of course, it didn’t mean that he wanted to go through it again.

“You’re lucky you were able to get all the way to the capital. Did you catch the Golden Eagle with that kind of skill?”

“Huu, this is crazy. Why is he like this?”

“With such an attitude, the gunpowder will only be wasted. If you have a lot of money to burn, then continue to be like that-”

“Haha, hello, director-nim!”

“Hmm? Oh?”


Leeha approached with a smile. The player and even Browless were surprised for a moment.

“Ah, you’re testing a newcomer, it won’t be for nothing.”

“Leeha-kun. You…You’ve improved a lot-”

“Wow! Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha!! You’re Ha Leeha, right!? Awesome!!!”

As he stopped talking, the player jumped.

“I played as a musketeer after watching your video! Wow! Please sign! Please sign my musket-”

“…If you don’t go back to your place right away and finish 50 shots, I will expel you.”

“… Uh… yes.”

Of course, it was impossible to be giddy in front of Browless.

Browless sent the player back to the firing range and moved into the building with Leeha.

Leeha was happy that the player recognized him, but he was happier to see Browless’s reaction.

‘You’ve improved a lot. Hehe, my level increased so much that the director said that.’

When was the last time I saw him? Leeha had been through a lot to make his level and stats soar… It was to the point that it was surprising even from an NPC’s perspective.

Only after entering the director’s room did Browless glance at Leeha’s musket. When he found a gun of a different color from the last time and even a scope attached to it, the corner of Browless’s lips couldn’t help but rise slightly.

“It’s pretty obvious why you came today.”

“As expected. You know right away.”

Leeha examined the state of the Hummingbird, which he had already checked more than a hundred times. There was no problem.

“Miss Elizabeth’s Will… I will take it.”

“I’ve been waiting for that.”

Browless took out a scroll from a book and handed one to Leeha.


“Let’s go.”

“Yes.”

Riip, two scrolls were torn at the same time. A long time after Leeha and Browless disappeared, the player entered the director’s room.

“I’m done- huh? What?”

No matter how much he searched for them, he didn’t find them…

“What if the NPC did not return? Leeha left without even signing. Damn bastard.”

No matter how much he grumbled, there was nothing he could do. The user returned to the shooting range and continued practicing alone.

“Phew, this is…”

“It’s a place we used to go to when we were kids.”

Browless smiled. Leeha smiled thinking of what kind of childhood they had in a game that had only been available for less than a year. It was probably what was set up for NPCs.

They near a cliff.

They were terrain made of gravel and rocks. It was likely to be infested with monsters, but there were no players monsters around.

If there was something unusual, it was the evidence stuck on the cliff in the canyon across it.

There were countless wooden boards grotesquely embedded in it.

‘This is very different from my expectations.’

How do they measure the distance of 444m?. Leeha expected it as well.

The easiest way was to put the targets within a certain interval and have Leeha hit one of them.

‘They have the same distance. I have to hit exactly one target of my own choice.’

In order to confuse him, the targets were not laid out between 400m and 500m.

The first target might be 444m away. It was also possible that the target was at 555m instead of 444m as a diversion.


‘It’s Middle Earth, so it is possible.’

Browless hasn’t said anything. He waited patiently while Leeha scanned his surroundings.

“Do I have to explain?”

“I should choose my target, and hit the target I picked – right?”

“You have three chances. Good luck.”

Browless nodded. Should I be thankful that it doesn’t have a time limit? Leeha shook his head and looked to the other side.

‘We are facing the cliff. Why did he choose a test site like this?’

Just because? Is he afraid that I would measure 444m with my footsteps? No, it was not like that. Leeha picked up a pebble. And threw it.

The pebble flew in a parabola and floated for a moment at the end of the canyon.

When Leeha looked at Browless, Browless smiled.

“Hmmm. This is too much, director.”

“What is too much? It should be enough. If it’s with your skill level.”

Wind!

The wind blowing between the cliffs was the variable of this test.

Woosh, from the moment he heard the sound of the wind, he got anxious, as expected, it was not an easy test.

“Well, I knew it.”

“What?”

“Isn’t assuming the worst-case scenario what a sniper does?”

The ‘assistant’ that helped him along with Jachung wasn’t just called to measure the distance.

His occupation was a wind magician, and he created strong winds to disturb Leeha from sniping.

‘This is nothing compared to that wind. That person was out of his mind too. I don’t even understand why.’

When Leeha asked for wind to disturb him, he caused a typhoon with a speed of 35m/s, causing Leeha to roll around several times.

‘Actually, that person has also improved because of me. Because I knew that he could control air volume and wind speed by controlling mana, not magic power.’

Ram Hwajung knew it, but ordinary users did not know about this mana operation. The mage who came to help Leeha realized the method after that Leeha practiced at wind speed between 10 to 20 m/s that could break twigs in a grassland.

“Phew… I would be lying if I said I am not nervous though. I’m glad my hands sweat.”

“Haha, right.”

Leeha poured gunpowder and a bullet, and raised the Hummingbird. After overcoming multiple challenges and difficulties, he finally stood here.

“Let’s begin.”

“Okay.”

Browless nodded. It felt like the ground around him flashed for a moment.

It was now time to complete it.

The location of the shooter is already marked. Leeha calmly laid down in that position. A target of 444m must be found based on the designated position.

‘Eagle’s eye’

The scope was attached, but he didn’t use it at first. Calmly and slowly, Leeha carefully looked at each target, until the casting time of Eagle’s Eye was over.

The first hurdle was the countless targets, the second was the relentless wind. There might not have been a third trap.

‘Hmm?’

e found one target. Unlike the nearby wooden board targets, the tree was dyed a little red.

This target had a different color, as if it was made from a different material of wood.

‘Right, that’s definitely 170 to 175 cm in size. They were all slightly different in length, but they were similar. Which one had a unique color?’

Leeha focused. It’s definitely over 430m. Less than 450m.

Leeha started to measure the distance of the red wooden board using the scope.

‘It’s close. Even with a scope it’s close. If this is really 444m…’

Leeha swallowed his saliva. The difference was very subtle even if they really were of different colors.

That target wasn’t bright red on the yellow wooden board, but it had a slightly different saturation at best.

‘Was I able to see it because of Eagle’s Eye?’

He might have considered it as luck in the past. He would have measured the wind direction and speed immediately. However, not now. Leeha was suspicious.

‘Should I check? I have three chances. If it isn’t the target after shooting at it once, I can still find another target after that.’

The wooden plank beyond the scope wobbled. He gathered the confidence to shoot. Once his mind was set on it, he was so focused that only the target caught his eyes.

If it was impossible to find the target at 444m, Leeha would have unconditionally pulled the trigger toward this target.

However, Leeha held back, he did not have three chances to shoot, but he had three chances to find the target. If he took the irregularity of the wind as a variable, he couldn’t pull the trigger recklessly. I have to move with the idea of hitting the target in one shot, after all, I am a sniper.’

Snipers did not have a second chance.

The words ‘One shot, one life’ was attached to the description of his previous weapons.

Leeha shook off his worries and used the scope to find the targets one by one.

There were six to seven targets beyond the scope that he was currently aiming at. One of them should be at 444m distance. There should be.

“Huuuu…”

And finally, the Hummingbird stopped. Leeha’s muzzle, like a hummingbird flying between flowers in search of delicious honey, stopped in the air.

It pointed to a shabby-looking target beyond the pale red target. The wooden board was hard to verify whether it was there or not and was not even conspicuous.

Wind speed? Wind direction? He aimed.

Leeha, who aimed with both eyes , looked for signs with the other eye that did not touch the scope.

On the other side of the cliff, he could see the branches of the trees swaying as if they were dancing, rising from the cliff.

‘The branches flutter the canyon. The direction of the leaves is south-southwest, the speed is around 9m/s. If I consider the distance, it would affect the trajectory by quite a bit.’

The muzzle, which was aimed at the faded wooden board with no characteristics, moved slightly upward and to the right.

‘There’s only one goal. I get one chance.’

This was a test that required shooting a target that was farther than the muzzle velocity. He knew that the bullet could move one or two clicks from where he aimed.

“Haaa…”

Leeha controlled his body by exhaling all the air circulating from his body.

He adjusted the height of his aim by half a head. Considering the influence of gravity, his aim would only reach less than 300m, but Leeha was confident.

‘Calm Mind, snipe.’

And he quietly spoke the name of his skills, and pulled his finger. His index finger moved a cm, it took 3 seconds to move that small distance.

Bang…!

The iron bullet was shot. The iron bullet, which went straight ‘,floated’ when it reached the area between the canyon.

The bullet, which was influenced by the wind as it floated, began to fall to the bottom left, like a curve in baseball, and the position where its movement completely stopped…

Ttak-!

…A faded wooden plank was located.

Seeing the skill that could be called the pinnacle of downhill musket operation, Browless applauded.

(To be continued…)
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A fanfare rang out with the sound of applause. He hadn’t heard the pabam sound in a long time-! The sound was pleasant to Leeha’s ears.

『 You have completed the quest Miss Elizabeth’s Will. 』

『 You have leveled up. 』

『 You have leveled up. 』

‘Two? I’m level 144, and I leveled up twice?’

The message was as surprising as Browless’ clapping his hands. It was a quest that gave him enough experience to raise his level twice at his current level!

“It seems that three chances were a luxury to you. I didn’t expect you to pass in only one try. I was surprised.”

“Hmm, I am more surprised to be honest. I didn’t think I would succeed.”

Leeha shook and shrugged his shoulders. The truth was he wasn’t confident. However, he had faith. The belief that his shot would definitely not miss.

Seeing his bold look, Browless burst out laughing.

“With the exception of her, it was rare for Brown or me to succeed in one shot…”

“What?”

“No, it’s nothing. Anyway, she always insisted that those who hit it first try and those who hit it try have different skills. That is probably why your level has risen rapidly.”

“Ah…”

Leeha could understand Browless’s words.

It meant that the experience points obtained differed depending on how many tries one made. Leeha was able to raise by two levels because he succeeded in his first try.

“Congratulations, Leeha-kun.”


“Thank you, director-nim”

“‘This’ is going to be tough.”

Browless smiled softly. With a smile that didn’t look scary at all, even with the burn scars and eyebrows missing, he tapped Leeha’s shoulder.

『 Achievement: Next Generation – Accuracy 』 Congratulations! You have become the successor of the Three Musketeers recognized the continent. Just as the Three Musketeers of the previous generations saved the continent from crisis, there are great expectations you and your companions.

(The news about the completion of the next generation of the Three Musketeers will soon spread to the continent.)

Reward: 18 Stat points,

Continental Reputation increased by 100,

Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution increased by 200,

Location information sharing between the Next Generation of Three Musketeers.

You are the third registrant of the achievement of 『 The Next Generation of the Three Musketeers 』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.

Effect: 18 Stat points,

Continental Reputation increased by 200,

Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution increased by 400,

‘A+!’

Even an A-Class was huge. If it was at that level, out of the 100 million Middle Earth users, there were less than a thousand users who have it.

‘What’s more, the continental reputation increases by 300?’

The condition for entering the Royal Palace of the Fibiel Kingdom was 300 or more continental reputation, and 500 Fibiel Kingdom or higher. It meant that even if he had no reputation or achievements before, he would still get a free pass to the Royal Palace once he got this achievement.

It was said that the Royal Palace, which was the most difficult place to enter in the Fibiel Kingdom, could be entered with only one achievement. It was enough that it could sound like a scam.

There also an additional 54 stat points that came with it. It meant that he had obtained additional 10 levels without doing anything.


“That’s…huge. No, it’s not enough to say that this is huge…. What should I say…”

“Are you pleased?”

“I not just pleased! Oh my gosh! Doesn’t Director-nim suddenly look cool?”

“Seeing that you are even joking, I think I have been treating you too well these days.”

“Haha, no sir! Thank you, director-nim!” Leeha took a tight, attentive posture. It was so great that it was literally in the description.

‘This is because the ‘previous generation’ of the Three Musketeers achieved outstanding achievement. Wouldn’t it be great to be the successor of the three people who had the role of saviors with outstanding skills among the human allied forces?’

“You shouldn’t be surprised by something like this.”

“What? Ah!”

“The real thing hasn’t even started yet, and you’re already like that. Let’s go back.”

Browless tore a scroll. That’s right, it wasn’t just an achievement that Leeha would receive upon completing the quest. Leeha and Browless arrived at the academy in an instant.

A matte black musket hanging on the wall in the room caught Leeha’s eye.

‘No, it’s not just a musket.’

‘Rapid fire’ Kidd had the 『Revolver』.

‘Pierce’ Luger had something close to an 『Armor-Piercing Cannon』 that could penetrate obstacles.

If so, what about ‘Bullseye’?

Browless picked up the musket hanging from the wall.

“This is yours now. Elizabeth… cough…”

After clearing his throat a few times, he looked directly into Leeha’s eyes.

“…please.”

Leeha received the musket handed over by Browless.


『 You have acquired Black Bass. 』

At the same time, a notification window appeared in front of him.

『 Traces of two people -1 』

Description: I will order a member of the next generation of the Three Musketeers to find traces of the two missing people, mister Brown and Miss Elizabeth. It isn’t just for my curiosity. If those two really belong to the Demon King’s Army… Even though the next generation of the Three Musketeers had been formed, Browless had a dark expression. He seeks to find his two companions who disappeared in the second Human-Demon war. Find their traces first.

Content: Acquire information on ‘the place where the Demon King’s army withdrew during the second Human-Demon War’.

Reward: Traces of two people -2 quest

– Are you sure you want to accept?

“Are you telling me to find Miss Elizabeth?”

“That’s right. If the two really became members of the Demon King’s army, it would be a big deal. There are rumors that the movements of monsters on the borders of each country are increasing.”

“If they became active…”

“It’s about having organized movement.”

There were monsters who their own villages, but Browless wasn’t probably talking about that now.

Is he talking about those who have no social skills showing organized movements?

“Are you saying that the Demon King is about to appear again?”

Do you mean he’s behind this? In response to Leeha’s question, Browless kept his mouth shut for a moment.

“I’m not sure.”

But there was a possibility. Leeha remembered the achievement he had gained before.

After slaying one of the surviving monsters of the second Human-Demon war, the Kobold Chieftain Hijuit-Ka, there were words written.

‘To stop the third tragedy… I have to become strong before that time comes, right?’

He had a feeling. It was part of the main story of the game, the main quest line!

Leeha looked at the quest window again. There was no condition for failure. There was no reason to refuse.

“Okay. I have to check the location where the Demon King’s army retreated.”

“Hmm. They have completely disappeared from this continent. Even those Sacred Knights could only track the small fries, but the real threats couldn’t be found. You must find the traces of those who have completely disappeared.”

“I understand. Ah! I wanted to ask.”

“Hmm?”

Leeha grabbed the Black Bass that he received from Browless.

‘It’s light.’

Even though he was used to the Hummingbird that would not lose to any other musket in terms of lightness, the Black Bass felt lighter.

But that was it. At least in Leeha’s eyes, it was just a nice and light ‘decorative musket’. It wasn’t the great musket that Leeha expected.

“How do I use this?”

“What?”

“I met Kidd and Luger. They…”

“Ah, you meant that. That… I don’t know either.”

“Eh?”

『 Black Bass 』 was used by Elizabeth. Even I couldn’t transform it.”

“…You mean…”

“You have to find out for yourself. That’s how it’s supposed to be.”

Browless smiled and touched the brim of his hat.

‘He left out everything that’s complicated and wants me to figure it out myself. Damn it!’

Well…it couldn’t be helped. Leeha had no choice but to nod his head in understanding.

Turning around, Browless said to Leeha.

“The direction won’t be different.”

“What?”

“No matter what Black Bass turns into, the place it needs to go will be the same. It would be difficult to handle with human power.”

“What do you mean?”

“Well?”

It’s been a long time since Leeha heard Browless being so talkative. And one person came to mind as soon as he heard his tone. After pondering for a while, the name of the person came to Leeha’s mind.

“Hmmm, director-nim, I’m not sure if I could ask this but… Did you tell Kidd vague hints as well?”

“No, I can’t do that to my student. I taught him all he needed to know about the 『 Crimson Geckos 』.”

What a cheap shot!

When Leeha’s pupils enlarged, Browless smiled.

“Go to the Adamantine Mountains. The answer will be there.”

“Ada- Ah…! As expected. Okay.”

“What, you already knew?”

When Leeha put on a relieved expression, Browless pursed his lips as if saying “You’re not fun.”

“I was just guessing that it would be.”

“Well, someone who passed Elizabeth’s test couldn’t possibly be stupid. Good! I will look forward to it, Leeha-kun.”

“Thank you, director-nim. Then, until next time.”

Leeha left the academy. There’s no way he didn’t know what Adamantine mountain meant.

‘Dwarfs…’

That’s what I have been thinking all along. Leeha felt pleased with himself that his guess was not wrong.

“Okay then-! Shall I test it a little?”

Next was the 『 Black Bass 』s turn. The Three Musketeers quest had no condition for failure so he could go slowly. The detailed information of the 『 Black Bass 』 was displayed in front of Leeha.

『 Black Bass used by the Hero 』 (Non-Tradable)

Attack power: (User’s Agility) + (User’s Agility * 6)

Range: 40m

Attack Speed: 1 shot per minute

Effect : Agility +18

Requirement: Strength 30 or higher,

Agility 1,270 or higher, black Powder, iron bullet,

Ramrod

Description: Musket used by the Musketeer ‘Miss Elizabeth’, the Hero of the Fibiel Kingdom.

Rumors remain that it was created by a legendary dwarf as a weapon that surpassed human technology.

Additional Effect:

Scaling-Type weapon – SASR (Special Applications Sniper Rifle) available.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Notes:

브라운 베스 – Brown Bess – 베스 here refers to a musket

블랙 베스 – Black Bass – 베스 refers here to to the fish

베스 can either be Bess or Bass
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 183

				
Translated by: xLordFifth

Edited by: Aadhitya

Edited by: Spitfirus

“Another Heroic level…?”

Leeha already had such an item. The necklace containing Dark Elf essence was also heroic. However, that item was not obtained by Leeha.

‘It was an item Agromni Igor used. It’s comparable… no, weapons are much more valuable than accessories!’

Lesser, normal, special, rare… And the next was Heroic.

The 6th level of the item’s rank is Heroic.

There are very few Heroic-rank items in the auction house regardless of what kind.

This is partly because there were few people who wanted to sell it, and partly because the drop rate for Heroic-rank items itself was extremely low.

‘Usually, the item’s performance is increased by 5-10% or more. Even if they are at the same level, there is at least 15% difference between lesser-rank and special-rank items.’

That was the minimum. Depending on the nature of the item, the number could go up to 20 25%. That’s only when it’s special.

What about the rare-rank? No, 『 Black Bass 』 was not even rare. It was heroic-rank.

“Crazy…”

Leeha laughed dejectedly. The attack power of the ‘Special’ Hummingbird’s attack was already so strong. If so, how much would the attack of the 『 Black Bass 』 be?

Leeha looked at the attack power formula of the item.

(User’s Agility) + (User’s Agility * 6) = 7,710

Leeha’s current agility was 1,110 which meant 7,710 attack power.

Hummingbird’s attack power was 4,760. Even with the Forbidden Rage skill from the Dark Elf’s necklace applying, it was only around 5,000.

‘If the 『 Crimson Geckos 』 and 『 Cobalt Blue Python 』 are also like this…'”


That’s why Kidd and Luger were incredibly strong.

Kidd who single-handedly wiped out the level 140 Czar guild members with a single shot each.

And Luger, who beat Kidd, provided that Kidd was wounded, but still.

And although Leeha piled up a lot of achievements and stats, he thought he would not be able to reproduce that kind of firepower.

Leeha suddenly remembered that the two people were linked with him.

“…They are both cheaters.”

Leeha couldn’t help but curse. At the same time, he realized the eternal truth.

“It’s true that games are all about items… He, hehe…”

What’s the point of raising stats? What’s the point of raising levels? As expected, good games are basically supported by good items.

“I-It’s not the time for this. Character Window.”

Leeha, who was staring at Black Bass, hurriedly opened his character window.

Agility 1,110. He still could not use Black Bass. If you add up the 1,270 agility and 30 strength requirements, the minimum stats required to use Black Bass was 1,300.

‘The total required stats of Hummingbird was 800. But, considering the difference in required stats, this attack power can’t be considered a cheat.’

They won’t be able to use it if they were low-levels anyway. Even a level 146 musketeer would have a hard time equipping it.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 146 (0%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 38 HP: 4,260 (2,982) / MP： 1,080 Stats:

Strength: 150 (493)

Agility: 1,110 (+260)

Intelligence: 103 (+52)


Constitution: 145 (+52)

Mind: 40 (+30)

Remaining stats: 162

“That is if it’s someone else.”

These were the stats he had accumulated so far. There were also the points earned by becoming the next-generation Three Musketeers. Others would tremble even at 1 or 2 points, but he had 162 points that had not yet been invested.

Leeha managed to prevent the corner of his lips from rising.

‘Besides, as long as it converts agility into attack power…’

There’s no reason to invest points into other stats in the future.

He had enough strength to carry the weight, and enough mana to cast skills.

Critical hit rate had something to do with intelligence, but for Leeha, the combat assistance system was turned off anyway.

For Leeha, who aimed for instakills, critical hit rate had little to do with him.

‘In other words…!’

Stats:

Strength: 150 (493),

Agility: 1,272 (+260),

Intelligence: 103 (+52),

Constitution: 145 (+52),

Mind: 40 (+30).

Remaining stat points: 0

‘It means it doesn’t matter if I do it like this! I also meet the requirements!’


Leeha looked at the attack power of Black Bass again.

(User’s Agility) + (User’s Agility * 6) = 8,904.

“8,904…”

What would happen if you add the effect of Forbidden Rage skill: -30%HP in exchange for +20% attack power?

“Is this okay?”

Leeha sat down in front of the academy and wrote the figures on the sandy floor. The calculation wasn’t wrong but the attack power was so ridiculous that he erased and recalculated several times.

10,685.

“Hmm… I don’t even need to shoot the head anymore…”

How many people could survive getting hit by a bullet with an attack power of 10,865? Leeha suddenly got curious.

– You finally succeeded?

And at that moment, a familiar voice rang in Leeha’s head.

– Kidd! You’re not dying, are you?

– Who can kill me? At that time, I got ambushed.

Hearing Kidd’s voice, Leeha couldn’t help but laugh. He thought that Kidd was a fun guy to tease.

How did he know that he completed the quest? Actually, it was obvious Kidd already mentioned it before he left, and it was also in the achievement description.

Location sharing between the next generation of the Three Musketeers. Kidd, who had only seen Luger’s location, would have known the moment Leeha’s location appeared.

‘Let’s see.’

There was no way Leeha could not see what Kidd could see. This and that appeared in the system windows, and he found the location of the two people visible near the friend’s window.

– Are you far away? At an inn at the Central-Keitun of the Shazrashian Federation? Why an inn?

– I was supposed to sleep.

– Ah…

Kidd’s nickname suddenly came to Leeha’s mind. Sleeping…. How did such a person become ‘Rapid fire’?

‘It’s definitely detailed. Usually, it doesn’t specify the location, and only roughly shows that they are nearby…’

Luger’s location was also visible. The vast wasteland of Minis Kingdom in the north – 3rd floor of the abandoned Ravenloft castle. What is he doing walking around?

‘Come to think of it, 『 Arcane Sniper 』 is terrific. Even though Kidd sleeps like that, he’s ahead of me in every way.’

He thought it was extremely unfair.

– You should check Luger’s position from time to time. After the last battle, it seems the misunderstanding about 『 Arcane Sniper 』 has been cleared up.

– Why? Even though he knows that I am not the 『 Arcane Bullet 』 user? Will he bother me?

– Bother? He has no such thoughts. It’s just a matter of whether you would get in his way or not. It’s difficult to talk to him.

– Cough… Well, I think I can tell that conversation doesn’t really work. Anyway, thanks! Ah, do you have any plans to go to the Adamantine Mountains?

– I don’t need bullets.

– What a cheapshot. Help me out.

– I’m sleepy.

Hearing Kidd’s answer, Leeha didn’t feel bad. It seemed that the hint Browless gave was correct.

It seems I could get new bullets from the dwarves.’

Then there was no reason to delay. He carried two muskets on each shoulder, and took the crystal ball Ram Hwajung had given him and tore a teleport scroll

‘Destination, dale Castle.’

There were two paths from Fibiel Kingdom to the Adamantine Mountains at the westernmost point of the continent.

From Fibiel Kingdom, return north and pass through the Shazrashian Federation, or go south through Minis Kingdom.

There was a third way, and that was to cross the Sentinel Mountains and cross the land of the dead, but that wasn’t really a road.

‘There’s no need to choose the path that super-high level people who do dragon raids use. Besides, if I go to the Minis Kingdom, I might run into Luger.’

After a delay of about 10 seconds, the position stored in the crystal ball appeared.

『Hwajung’s Favorite Place』

1. Unni’s house – It’s warm and fluffy and it feels good.

2. Dale – Our castle 〉_〈 Yahoo. Unni’s wish came true!

3. Capital – need to stop by from time to time

4. S1- My private secret place

5. S2 – I’ll go with oppa later. When can I go?

6. S3 – Guild base! Did she have a lot of pocket money, what is this?

Leeha doubted his eyes for a moment. What? 15 of the 20 position slots in the advanced crystal were already confirmed.

In addition, the name of the saved place or the additional explanation next to it… surely…

‘Did she give me what she used? No, is this correct?’

Normally, Leeha would have thought that the crystal ball that Hwajung gave him was previously used by her, but he couldn’t believe it.

Who gave this? She was an expressionless little lady who was even called ‘Ice Witch’ by Byulcho.

“It won’t be theft. Impersonation? No, no. She gave it to me directly. Wow…”

Leeha swallowed his saliva and looked at the list again and again.

When he matched Ram Hwajung’s face, which barely smiled, with the cute tone in the crystal ball, laughter leaked out.

‘Really, favorite place. Besides, should I be happy that she set up a hunting ground to go with me?’

Leeha laughed at the thought of whether or not to press ‘Unni’s House’, and finally pressed Dale Castle. Because he didn’t think there was any need to kill himself.

“No.”

Hwik, hwik.

She turned her bag inside out and shook it, but she couldn’t find what she was looking for. Hwayeon opened her mouth after staring at the blue-haired lady, who was busily running through drawers and cabinets.

“What is it, hwajeong?”

“No.”

“What?”

When her younger sister froze without answering, Ram Hwayeon got tense for a moment.

(To be continued…)
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What was missing? If it’s so important that she was looking for it, was it guild-related documents? Or group business files?

The words that came out of Ram Hwajung’s mouth, who had been fumbling for a while with a pale face, was unexpected.

“My crystal ball.”

“Crystal ball? Haha, there are cases where our Hwajung loses her temper. Unni will buy you one.”

“That… That’s not it!”

“Huh? What’s the matter?”

Even when Hwayeon came closer, it was no use. Hwajung shook her sister’s hand and went back and forth in places where the crystal ball could not be found.

“My crystal ball… my crystal ball!”

Hwayeon, unable to understand why Ram Hwajung was being like that, could only find her sister’s actions strange. High-quality crystal balls were expensive, but from her point of view it was cheap.

‘She’s my younger sister, but sometimes I can’t understand her.’ She just shrugged her shoulders, wanting to say something like that. Jachung, who was watching the scene, shook his head and immersed himself work.

“My crystal baaaaaaall…”

Ram Hwajung looked through her bag, almost tearing up, but there was no way she would find it. No, at this point, she was barely paying attention.

Who has her crystal ball? It was just painful to know that ‘he’ had her crystal ball.

“If you go further north, it’s the Shazrashian Federation.”

It may be closer by going through the Minis Kingdom.

However, Luger’s location troubled him. As much as Leeha understood Luger’s location, Luger also knew Leeha’s.

If Luger knew that Leeha entered the Minis Kingdom, Leeha would not know what he should do if he got chased by Luger.


‘I shouldn’t try my luck. It’s a little far but let’s move to the Shazrashian Federation.’

Shazrashian Federation, a cold country in the north. It was a country where there were many snowy mountains and tundra, and there were many giant beast monsters including the yeti. It was also a place that Leeha had never been to before.

‘I have return scrolls, so everything should be fine, but I’m still nervous.’

Leeha quietly went out to the north gate and started walking. The Hummingbird was still in its musket state.

He wanted to change it into the pistol form, but he thought he didn’t have to remodel it with a human blacksmith since he’s going to meet the dwarves anyway.

‘It was a little inconvenient, but he thought that it might be better if it was modified by a dwarf. Leeha looked at the 『 Black Bass 』 as he walked towards the border, it was so black that it seemed to suck in the rain, but not to the point that it was empty. The barrel was so black that he thought it was not good for camouflage.

‘The gunpowder plate and hammer are that of a decorative musket. In this state….how! Skill!’

Will its appearance change when you use a skill? Leeha, who was preoccupied with everything, including the ridiculous attack power, realized that he was missing the most important point.

He immediately opened his skill window. A skill that he had not seen before, was created.

It was a skill that was created when equipping the 『 Black Bass 』.

『 Weapon Transformation – SASR 』

Description : Removes the seal of the legendary dwarf. If you can’t handle its power, take your hands off Black Bass!

Condition of use : Achievement-Next Generation of the Three Musketeers – ‘Bullseye’

Effect : Transform into 『 Black Bass : SASR 』 Mana : 500 (50 mana per hour after that) Duration: When released when mana is zero Cooldown : 24 hours

Leeha carefully read. Was it the SASR that he knew?

‘Right… The effect was correct. SASR stands for Special Applications Sniper Rifle! The highest quality sniper rifle specially made and distributed among ! , is it fair now?!’ What was written in the description? Rifle. Leeha could tell without using the skill.

Because rifle was a word that described all firearms with cut steel wires.

After coming out of Dale Castle’s north gate, Leeha muttered quietly in a place where neither NPC nor user were visible.

“Weapon Transformation, sASR.”

Black energy gathered towards 『 Black Bass 』. In the next moment, what Leeha held in his hand was not a black musket.


The gun, which was supposed to weigh 3kg, suddenly became 4 times heavier.

“…I can’t even curse at Kidd and Luger anymore.”

Who’s the most fraudulent?! I’m in no position to refute from being called that.

The weight was around 12kg. A normal musket weighed around 5kg, and a modern rifle weighed less than 4kg.

『 Black Bass 』 had grown so much that its weight was three times heavier.

The gun felt heavy even with Leeha’s strength.

Still, just in case, Leeha looked at the 『 Black Bass 』. The black color that seemed to absorb light was still the same. However, the ‘old parts’ such as the gunpowder plate were gone.

“It is too much… This…”

In fact, he recognized it at first glance.

No matter how unified the colors were, there was no way Leeha would not know this gun. But he couldn’t believe it, so he looked carefully, but the more he looked, the more certain he was.

‘TAC 50! Damn, mk.15, it’s Mark 15!!’

The name given by the manufacturer was TAC50 However, there was a more famous name than what the manufacturer gave.

‘Mk. 15’, the sniper rifle that only the top snipers use in the U. S. Navy.

‘Did they get a license for this? No, the name is different, so does it matter? Damn, they look the same-!’

This is not a musket. Leeha felt his hands trembling.

It was unavoidable. It was different compared to when you pour black powder onto a gunpowder plate.

Wow- haha!

Leeha pulled the ‘bolt’. A part that should never exist in a full-length musket!

Mark 15 is a ‘bolt-action’ type that manually loads and discharges the shell.

There was no magazine and he could only hear the sound by pulling the bolt, but Leha felt all his senses ringing.


‘Really. It’s really bolt-action! Well, there’s a revolver so it won’t be unusual if there’s also a bolt-action.’

But, isn’t this just a simple bolt action? As far as firearms go, sniper rifles in particular, Leeha took pride in his knowledge more than anyone else.

‘The evolution of the musket into the revolver took a century, or if we’re being generous, about two centuries. But this is already modern, it came in the year 2000s! It’s much better than the domestic sniper rifle that I bought and used before!’

Leeha knew not only the famous sniper rifles, but also the unpopular ones.

Not to mention Mk. 15, which was one of the strongest sniper rifles in the world right now. Leeha knew everything about it, from weight to effective range and hit record.

‘Most importantly, the bullets used. It’s not just a personal sniper rifle used by infantry battalions.’

Normal sniper rifles use 7.62mm ammunition.

However, for 『 Black Bass: SASR 』, from Leeha’s perspective, this gun which mimics the existing Mk. 15 modern time, does not use the ‘flimsy’ 7.62mm bullet.

‘The bullet it uses is the 12.7 x 99mm bullet, meaning, it is 12.77mm caliber. It’s almost twice as thick as a normal sniper bullet.’

Among the sniper rifles that use the same bullets, Leeha knew that there was another very famous rifle from the previous generation.

‘The so-called ‘Anti- Sniper Rifle’ Barrett M82 uses the same ammunition.’

Leeha knew very well what happens if a person gets shot by it.

Leeha suddenly felt that the weight of the Black Bass he held was getting heavier.

“Did he say that the Bass is called the tyrant of the freshwater and devours everything…?”

Leeha suddenly remembered what Jachung said. Leeha looked down at the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』.

“It must be true.”

smiled. If there was one thing that he forgot, it was that he didn’t check the item information of the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』.

Like that, he walked towards the north. In the forest near the checkpoint visible on the border road, three ratmen caught Leeha’s eyes.

“Let’s try to catch the rats first.”

The distance was about 80m. It was close enough to hear the squeaking of Koma-sized ratman. He hid behind a wooden pole and was very vigilant, but he had nothing to worry about.

*Mk.15, no, it shouldn’t be called that. Anyway, the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 should be able to pierce through a simple wooden pole. That kind of thing doesn’t even bother me anymore.’

The scope Leeha made was attached to the Hummingbird,the Black Bass did not have any scope, but Leeha did not hesitate. Anyway, a scope at this distance would only interfere.

‘Huu…’

Leeha took a deep breath.

The achievement of being the Next generation of the Three Musketeers, a huge item called Black Bass, and even the ‘transformation’ of the huge item was in his mind.

‘Haa…’

It meant that he couldn’t confirm anything too obvious. Leeha pulled the trigger facing the ratman.

Click-!

The ratmen’s ears pricked up and their bodies twitched! But that was all.

“What? What…?!”

It was unavoidable. Because 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 did not have any ammunition.

“Squeak? Squeak?!”

“Sq一 squeak-!”

“Oh… hmm… You won’t forgive me even if I say sorry, right?”

Squeak, squeak!

The ratmen started running towards Leeha with hostility.

“Hey, you’re making me look bad! I’ve got the strongest gun in the world right now…”

Leeha hastily hung the Black Bass on his right shoulder. It was a long gun. Its length was the same as the Hummingbird’s.

With long guns hanging from both shoulders, it was not possible to reload normally.

“Wait! Wait! Time!”

Squak- Sqeauk-!

Ratmen could form societies, but there was no way for them to communicate with humans.

After seeing the Ratmen getting closer, Leeha had no choice but to hold back his tears.

‘To use Black Bass, I have to deactivate the skill, no, I don’t even have time to load the Hummingbird!’

They were too close. He couldn’t help it now. Leeha hurriedly tied the Hummingbird and held the Black Bass tightly.

At first, he thought he was lucky that no one was around. How embarrassing would it have been for them to see him like that.

“It’s just that, it’s the first time I’m fighting with such a good item!”

Squeaak

“Waaa，get out, get out!! Bayonet Charge!” Leeha cried out in shame rather than fear, but his movement was swift and accurate.

He leaped and pierced the stomach of the ratman who was about to reach him, he looked at the other ratman who was catching up and quickly pulled out the needle gun-pistol and shot.

The pistol was for an emergency situation, so it was always ready. The fired grapeshot bullet dug into the ratman’s lower stomach.

Squeak!
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However, the last remaining ratman tried to swing its sharp claws, but Leeha swung his bayonet. The heavy butt of the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 smashed the slowed ratman’s skull.

The crunching sensation on his hand made Leeha want to cry.

“Even when I have become the Next Generation of the Three Musketeers, I’m still doing the same thing as when I was level 1!” In an instant, two ratmen were cleaned up, and the remaining one was bludgeoned to death with the Black Bass’s butt. He felt even more ashamed when he thought about why a level 146 user like him, had to fight like this.

“Cough. Hmm, but it’s definitely a high-end rifle, using it as a bat feels good in the hands. Isn’t it good for mincing meat? I’m going to try some rat meat.”

Puk, puk, after finishing off the ratmen, Leeha uttered unfamiliar sounds.

Unlike NPCs, it was relatively easy for users to cross borders. If a user belongs to an organization run by a country, they have restrictions on entering hostile countries.

In Middle Earth, the Shazrashian Federation and Fibiel Kingdom were not enemies.

“It’s cold.”

After crossing the border and walking to the first town, Leeha felt that the landscape had changed.

Most of the greenery had long disappeared. There were few conifers, but the surrounding area was mostly barren, so the wind felt even stronger.

‘The wind is strong, and the air is cold. Truly Middle Earth.’

Leeha still wore the Brown Bear coat. Now, it was so worn out that even the Tailor in the capital said that it could no longer be repaired, and that the item could disappear anytime.

‘I wore it for a long time.’

He was level 10 when he first got it. He still wore the item he got on the way to the capital. It was unimaginable for other users.

It was because defense was meaningless for a job that puts everything into a single attack.

When Leeha entered the town, was surprised by the number of giants in the Shazrashian Federation.

‘The NPCs are giants as well? Well, it’s said that if they were of giant race, there was a high chance of starting in the Shazrashian Federation. Besides, blonde hair and white skin… I can roughly guess which country they are from.’


As a town with supply shortage, Leeha was once again surprised to see that all the items were expensive. He was able to get a map Federation.

It cost a lot of money which he would not have thought about spending in the past, but now, he could afford to spend gold lightly.

“Well, which city is the closest to the Adamantine Mountain?”

Leeha opened his map.

Perhaps because it was a country with many giants, almost everything was huge. At first, it seemed that the standard size was set for Giants.

‘What kind of map uses this kind of paper ? How could you see something so big? No, if it is this big, do they give potions out at a bigger size?’

If so, it would be more expensive.

Leeha suddenly understood why Kidd was in the Shazrashian Federation. Kidd said he came here to sleep.

‘If this is the standard size tailored for giants…then what about the beds at inns? Would a giant’s bed be big enough for Kidd to roll around for a long time? Did he come all the way here just for that?

“Yes. Well, what’s the problem with that? He’d say, that man.”

It was like Kidd’s voice was somehow heard in Leeha’s head. After checking the map on how to reach his destination, Leeha walked towards the warp gate.

“Where do you want to go?”

“Vnudev City，for one person.”

The westmost city of Shazrashian Federation, closest to the Adamantine Mountains.

Just as users gather in Berfort to hunt in the Sentinel Mountains the Fibiel Kingdom, was the place where giants of the Shazrashian Federation gathered for hunting.

By the time Leeha felt his body float, he had already arrived in Vnudev.

“Waaah… Let’s go to Berfort. What person…”

Users gathered near the warp gate. In particular, there were so many giants that it made the space seem cramped.

“Looking for a 2-person party to hunt yetis! Level 150! Dealer-Tanks only!”

“Looking for a healer for Salea cave~ We already have 4 people! Healer-nim, please come here!”


“We’re looking for a human user to go to the snow rabbit area~! If you’re going to Adamantine, let’s go together~“

The giant’s roaring voices resounded, but in the midst of that, there was a cry that dug into Leeha’s ears.

‘Oh, adamantine Mountain? I’m sure there are people going there.’

Leeha searched for the source of the sound. But compared to the other giants, the voice was small.

In addition, although most of the giants wore their muscles like heavy armor, the owner of the shout was muttering shyly, so it took quite a while to find it.

‘That person- huh?’

Leeha managed to find the giant shouting “Snow Mountain Rabbit”. His voice and back seemed somehow familiar.

“Surely… Excuse me?”

Leeha approached him and patted him on the back.

“Snow Mountain- Yes? Waah?!”

Huik, the giant, looked back. How could he forget that somewhat foolish face?

“Kuwaak! Jin Gonggong-nim?”

“Leeha-nim? Ha Leeha-nim?”

The giant Jin Gonggong looked down at Leeha.

Giant Druid Jin Gonggong. He was one of the members who cleared the novice village graduation quest, the Golden Eagle with Leeha, and he was also an unfortunate user whose job was forced onto him, just like Leeha.

Leeha and Jin Gonggong scanned each other instantly.

“Ha Leeha-nim, what are you doing here?”

“I had to stop by this place… How about you, Jin Gonggong-nim? Since when have you been here?”

Both of them started in the Fibiel Kingdom. They didn’t expect to see each other at the westernmost town of the Shazrashian Federation.

And come to think of it, they didn’t really pay much attention to each other’s location, even though they were added as friends. It was unavoidable, because both of them busy with their own lives.


“Hey, I go wherever there is an animal. Hehe.”

“Animal… I see. Well, you’re a druid.”

It was a very understandable answer. Most importantly, Leeha was pleased with this innocent giant. All the more because of the cry made by Jin Gonggong.

“Ah! Are you going to the Adamantine Mountain?”

“Me? No, I will only go to the snow rabbit area. Beyond that lies the Adamantine Mountain. So I was wondering if There would be someone who could go with me… I don’t think there is anyone today either.”

Jin Gonggong let out a deep sigh. Leeha didn’t know what Jin Gonggong would do in the snow rabbit area, but he felt good that he had a reason to go with him.

“Come with me!”

“What? Ha Leeha-nim, why are you going to the snow rabbit…”

“No, I have to go to the Adamantine Mountain.”

“Really?! Then, can you help me in the snow rabbit area? If you help me, I will take you to the Adamantine Mountain! There are a lot of monsters on the way, so it will be difficult to go alone!”

“Haha, good. I don’t know how I could be of help, but it should be fun.”

Leeha felt Jin Gonggong’s urgency as cute as Oh Kwon-ji. There were a lot of monsters on the way to Adamantine Mountain… so, is he planning to help me because it’s dangerous?

Will he be able to help Leeha now?

‘Because he doesn’t know my level and ability. Although I cannot shoot the 『Black Bass: SASR』, it can still be used as a regular musket, and if I’m in a hurry, I can also use the Hummingbird.’

Obviously, Jin Gonggong’s items had also changed.

It was not a common robe worn by everyone, but a robe that Druids, priests of the forest friends of animals would wear a pattern that was engraved all over his body like a tattoo…. He looked more like a druid than before.

‘Still, he’s probably not higher-leveled than me. I’m not sure about Biyemi though.’

The same went for stats and items. It would not be higher than Leeha. Even so, the innocent giant claimed that he would help Leeha get to the Adamantine Mountains.

“Then, shall we go?”

“Should we make a party? Hmm, the experience will probably…”

“It’s okay. I’m not going hunting.”

Jin Gonggong smiled brightly and asked Leeha for a party. Not hunting? So why is he asking for help? While Leeha tilted his head, Jin Gonggong created the party.

“Ah! You don’t have to buy gunpowder? I remember you said it was very expensive before…”

“Uh, it’s been a long time since we have hunted together. There’s no such concerns now.”

“Hehe, that’s good. Let’s go then!”

While Jin Gonggong and Leeha were navigating through the crowd, there was a person looking at them, to be precise, it was a giant.

“…Silver Musket. Fur coat. Hunting cap. He looks like Ha Leeha. He’s moving with a giant, who’s supposed to be a healer. He also has a black weapon that looks like a musket, so please check it out.”

A man wearing a hoodie and a robe moved quietly.

The Shazrashian Federation is the land of giants, even the most famous giants belonged to this country.

“I also enjoyed watching the video.”

“What?”

“I am Korean. I was so proud when there were a lot of posts about Ha Leeha-nim in the community.”

“Ah… I-is that so?”

“The Rising Sun videos were great, but I can’t believe you have a connection with Hwahong and Byulcho. I thought I was going to die when they said that Ha Leeha-nim’s videos were edited.”

Jin Gonggong made a gesture of tapping the keyboard in the air.

“You bastards, you know, I used to party with Ha Leeha a long time ago. He’s a great guy! You’re saying that they’re edited!’ like this…”

“Cough, you’re still the same.”

“What?”

“No, nothing.”

In reality, he was naive, but when he a keyboard Jin Gonggong’s personality rough. Jin Gonggong looked at Leeha and asked carefully.

“But you have one more gun?”

“Ah, yes. This is why I’m going to the Adamantine Mountains.”

“Awesome. I want to use a weapon like that too.”

“By the way, where is Jin Gonggong-nim’s friend?”

“Friend?”

When Jin Gonggong tilted his head, Leeha stabbed the air with his finger.

“Dance Dance Crow. You dance like this when you summon him.”

“Its name is not Dance Dance Crow! Well… your actions are similar, but if I summon it in the town, the users will be terrified, so it is sealed now.”

“Terrified? Does it attack people?”

“No…. Ah, Ha Leeha-nim doesn’t know.”

“What?”

“Hehe, I’m level 89. Did you think it’s still the same crow from the past? He grew up quite a bit too.”

Jin Gonggong smiled shyly. Hearing his answer, Leeha was slightly surprised.

‘He grew faster than I thought.. Thinking about the time I partied with Biyemi and Jin Gonggong, players who reach the late 60s have a decent growth rate.’ Leeha, with an overwhelming attack power and explosives, grew at the speed that one could never imagine. In addition, he completed a lot of quests and had a guild battle with Rising Sun.

And what about Biyemi? A lizardia, whose identity was unknown, was also out of the question. He probably already reached a level similar to Leeha if not higher.

If one looked at Jin Gonggong, who was a normal user, he should still be in his late 60s or early 70s…

‘As expected, he has good gaming sense.’

Jin Gonggong seemed to understand Leeha’s smile.

(To be continued…)
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“Don’t laugh too much. I’m not as good as Ha Leeha-nim, but I’m still playing Druid while taking advantage of the giant’s racial characteristics.”

“I’m not mocking you. It’s because you’re interesting. And I’m not a super expert. I was just lucky while pulling the trigger a few times.”

“You’re still humble. That’s even nicer.”

“Hehe, don’t compliment me so much. Aren’t we already familiar with each other?”

Leeha and Jin Gonggong joked around like that and entered the foot of the mountain.

It was hard to climb the snowy mountain without a designated hiking trail, it even halfway up.

“Phew, I’m going to do some now. It’s a hunting ground from here.”

“Oh, is that so?”

“If you go in this direction, you will find the Angora Orc Village, further up from there will be the Yeti habitat. There are a lot of users, but you have to be careful.”

Jin Gonggong was skilled. Like someone who had been in the Shazrashian Federation for quite some time.

“Then I will summon him now.”

“Oh! I will see him again after a long time. Dance Dance Revolution!”

“W-well, that’s not his name.”

Though he was still shy, he didn’t hide behind a tree like he used to.

Leeha couldn’t help but laugh as he watched Jin Gonggong’s movements which were in harmony with nature.

“Hahaha, as expected, you’re the best.”

When Jin Gonggong danced like that, and beckoned to the sky and whistled. Something approached at high speed, blowing the snow off the snowy mountain.


“Hmm?”

The gigantic creature, with its back to the sunlight and only a silhouette, looked familiar to Leeha

“Golden Eagle?!”

Swooping and attacking? Golden Eagle in the snow mountain? As Leeha tried to lift his Hummingbird, Jin Gonggong stopped him.

“That’s why I couldn’t summon him in the town.”

Kuwaaak! Kuwaaaak!

“Amazing… What is this?”

“This guy doesn’t even eat jerky anymore.”

Of course it wouldn’t eat it. Leeha couldn’t keep his mouth shut as he watched the giant crow flap its wings a few times, like the rotors of a helicopter.

What the hell was this size? The crow was bigger than Leeha.

Kkaaak–!

“Waah!”

“Hehe, do you recognize Ha Leeha-nim?”

However, Leeha wasn’t happy. Ah… When the beak of the giant crow, which raised its head, came close to Leeha’s face, the only emotion he felt was fear.

“G-get rid of it please! I think it’s going to eat my eyeballs.”

“I tried it before, but he didn’t like it. He spat it out and then played with it”

“What? W-wait, Jin Gonggong-nim! Let’s go!”

Jin Gonggong continued climbing while grinning.

Leeha quickly followed, and the giant crow circled around Leeha, as if it knew the owner’s prank.

They climbed for another 40 minutes like that. Now, the trail was almost over. When they reached the middle of the snowy mountain, the temperature was so cold to the point that Leeha’s body trembled.


“Uh! Is it around here? I don’t think anything is going to happen.”

“Yes. Right, there’s only the snow rabbits in here. There are no monsters here, so I’m relieved.”

“By the way, you want that snow rabbit?”

“It is the animal that I have to tame this time.”

“Ahh… Hmm, then why not just do it with that crow?”

He vainly tried to stimulate the crow, but the quick-witted crow only cried “Caaaaww-!” “Snow Rabbits hate giants. The same goes for birds. That’s why I need a human user. Go back now, I’ll call you again next time.”

KKaak-!

Jin Gonggong sent the crow back to his subspace. Leeha realized what Jin Gonggong meant.

“Then… You want me to be the bait to lure out the snow rabbits?”

“It’s not like that. Just…. There’s nothing to fight anyway. Because you can’t kill them. Just stay still until the snow rabbit shows up and I will do the rest. Please help me, Leeha-nim.”

It was like that. Leeha sighed, but he had no choice since they had come this far.

‘Adamantine mountain isn’t on the map anyway. I don’t know the way to the mountain range from the snowy mountain, so I have to go with Jin Gonggong.’

Jin Gonggong pointed out the location to Leeha and hid himself by lying down in a distant place.

In an instant, Leeha was left alone like a scarecrow. He would play the role of a bait to draw out rabbits from the snow mountain, where the knife-like wind blew, and snow dust fluttered on the floor.

‘In my own way, I’m part of the next generation of the Three Musketeers.’

Even if he complained, there was no one to hear him. Leeha decided to pass the time by standing still and holding the Black Bass while touching it here and there.

No matter how much information he had, he had never actually dealt with it. He should get used to its weight, length and aim as soon as possible.

‘It’s heavy and long. Of course it’s to increase range, but…. Its mobility is definitely low.’

What if he transformed the musket into the SASR while moving through enemy lines? That wasn’t enough either.

‘My mana is insufficient and there’s also the cooldown. He had a total of 1080 mana, but a single skill uses 500. If he used calm mind, snipe, or something like marking…’


There’s also the continuous mana consumption. 50 mana per hour is not high, but when his mana reaches 0, the skill would automatically get canceled. In other words, there’s a chance that it can get canceled when he transforms Black Bass and uses multiple skills at the same time.

‘I can only use skills once my mana is sufficiently full through natural recovery. In other words, it is more efficient to give up the musket form and continue carrying it in the SASR form.’

Perhaps once I find the right sniper parts, I wouldn’t need the skill anymore.

However, there’s always an if. Leeha simulated various combat situations using the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』.

‘If that’s the case… hmm?’

Then he saw something dragging their feet at the bottom of the mountain.

They wore white robes suitable for the snowy mountain, but the way they dragged their feet as a group was different.

“No way…?”

Leeha put the Black Bass back on his shoulder and looked down through the Hummingbird’s scope.

‘Damn it, I don’t think I was marked, how were they able to find me?’

grumbled. No, he thought he might have made a mistake by choosing the Shazrashian Federation in the first place.

“Jin Gong-”

“Shh, it appeared! Stay still!”

He tried to inform Jin Gonggong of Czar’s arrival, but the giant druid put his hand to Leeha’s lips and instructed him to lower his posture.

“No, not now…”

Kkyu?

“… Huh?”

He heard a cute sound behind him and turned around.

“Ah…”

sighed. Creatures tend to grow larger in cold regions. And this was Middle Earth. What was the size of the Snow Rabbit?

‘I had to think about it…’

A gigantic white rabbit with front teeth the size of a human thigh approached Leeha, while wiggling its nose.

– Stay still, don’t move! – I can’t! The Czar guild is approaching from below, let’s run…

– No! Let’s do whatever it takes to run away later, please wait first!

– It’s time…

However, Jin Gonggong did not even listen to Leeha’s whisper, and he attacked the snow rabbit.

Kkyuuu, Kkyuu-!?

“Catch it!”

Did he get it? It’s headlocked! Should I say that?

Leeha frowned as he watched as the giant Snow Rabbit ran around like a flash of light with a giant hanging around its neck.

Kkyuu, kkyuu! Kkyuu kkyu!

“Stay still! I am a druid!”

“What are you doing? No matter how high up we are, it would only take 7, maybe 5 minutes arrives!”

“Still- Waaah! Absolutely~ Aaack, if you shoot~ no…! The rabbit ran away~ waaah!”

Everytime the snow rabbit shook its head the giant’s huge body rose air.

Giants themselves were far larger than humans, but the rabbit’s strength that shook them was……

Leeha was surprised by the unrealistic sight for a while, but that was a luxury.

‘What are they doing?! I discovered them first, but if I do a preemptive strike, I would have no choice but to run away.’ Yet Czar’s personnel were still searching.

However, the only people who went to the snow rabbit area were Jin Gonggong and Leeha, it was easy to follow their ‘tracks’ in the snowy mountain.

The combination of the snow and the mountain will slow down their climbing speed, however, they will still be able to reach them in 5-6 minutes.

“Isn’t our bunny so nice~? Do you want to be friends with oppa~? I’m a druid, a friend of nature!”

Kkyuu kkyuu! Kkyukkyukkyuuu!

Like the power struggle of the fisherman and the fish, Jin Gonggong tenaciously clung on the snow rabbit. Leeha roughly knew that the Druid is a nature-friendly job, and unlike tamers and summoners, they raise their skills and levels by increasing their ‘affinity’ with plants and animals.

‘That’s how you get close? Well, humans also become friendly with each other through fighting- no, it’s not the time for thinking about it!’

Leeha became impatient as he watched the snow rabbit running wild with Jin Gonggong hanging from its neck while bleeding.

“How long?!”

“It takes… around 5 minutes…This guy is strong~ Kuwaaak!”

“A little bit~ more!”

Leeha bit his lips tightly. If he could shoot even one shot, he would be able to slow Czar down.

‘Then, will the rabbit run away? Damn it, we might die before he could get familiar with the rabbit.’

Besides, what did he mean by doing whatever it takes to run away?

Leeha was curious about what Jin Gonggong meant when he said that confidently. He should have understood the situation with the word Czar alone. Leeha could tell that Jin Gonggong knew about it without asking any questions.

‘But he still had the confidence to say that? He probably doesn’t know the space lock scroll, and if they approach within 200m, we won’t be able to use the return scroll anymore.’

Meanwhile, Czar continued to approach. Leeha watched Jin Gonggong wrestle with the Snow Rabbit.

‘Perhaps Czar…? No, Jin Gonggong isn’t like that.’

He didn’t have a traitor’s face.

He almost got backstabbed by Sasuke before, but it was different now. Leeha believed in the giant that was making the situation unfavorable. He took the map out of his bag, enlarged it,and examined the surroundings.

He had to plan the optimal route in order to run away immediately.

‘The road cuts this way. We won’t be able to climb unless we climb the icewall. In the end, we would have to make a quick detour to the Yeti habitat… this wouldn’t be easy.’

The Czar quickly coming up. If he didn’t want to go down and meet them, Leeha couldn’t choose the path.

(To be continued…)
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‘Or this way… but what about this mark? I think it means cliff.’

He thought there was a way to escape, but there was no way! Then why was Jin Gonggong so confident?

Leeha swallowed dry saliva.

“Disable 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 skill.”

The sniper rifle, which boasted a black appearance in the snowy mountains, was changed back to its original musket shape.

There was no use having a gun you can’t shoot. Leeha immediately finished loading the Black Bass, hummingbird, and Needle Gun-Pistol..

‘I really hope Jin Gonggong… If so…’

He didn’t want to be betrayed twice. Whether or not he knew Leeha held his musket, Jin Gonggong continued to wrestle with the snow rabbit.

And finally, the members of Czar started to spread all at once. They were 100m away.

“Jin Gonggong-nim!! We have no more time! We must attack now!”

“Just a little bit more… that’s it! This guy has lost all of its strength! I will take responsibility and send you to Adamantine Mountain-please be patient! If hear a gunshot, it will be over!”

Jin Gonggong exclaimed in a more relaxed voice. The struggle of the snow rabbit was certainly coming to an end, and its movement was reduced a lot.

Leeha endured to the end. No, rather than being patient, he believed in Jin Gonggong. He wanted to believe.

“Huu, huu.”

His scrolls were also within reach. There was also the plan of creating a smokescreen using the snow by causing an explosion if the space was locked, and using a scroll to immediately increase the distance.

‘It’s okay. There’s a room. Because they are wary of me.’

Leeha, with his gun down, took a position where he can aim and fire at any time. It was difficult to tell their exact number because they were spread out but Leeha was prepared.


“Jin Gonggong-nim! We really don’t have time now! They’re all here!”

Papapat… Their faces began to be seen through the fluttering snow. There were 13 of them. They were so close. Leeha stood up and crept away.

“Formation A, capture Ha Leeha, you can kill the healer!”

“Da, sir!”

“Jin Gonggong-nim!!”

At the distance that the Czar’s voice could be heard, Leeha lifted his musket. He didn’t know if it was late or not. He could run away after one shot!

“Not yet… Kyaa, it’s over! It’s done!”

“Now I can shoot-”

“Catch him!”

The Czar’s thick and short shout covered Leeha’s voice! However, a louder voice even louder than that resounded behind Leeha.

“Snow Mountain, answer me! Mother Nature’s Call!”

Huwaaang, for a moment, Leeha and all of the Czar personnel’s stopped. From Jin Gonggong’s position they felt an invisible wave of energy spread out.

“Jin Gonggong-nim?”

When Leeha turned around, Jin Gonggong, who had become acquainted with the snow rabbit, smiled.

“Stop it, rabbit! Ha Leeha-nim, lower your gun!”

Kkyuuu—!

With its cry, the snow rabbit rushed at Czar’s personnel. Leeha could not hide his shock.

“Is this it? You’re asking me to trust…”

He’s going to use the Snow Rabbit to stop Czar? They are a group consisting of users who are over level 140, and he wants to stop them with a rabbit?!

One of the Czar’s personnel looke at the approaching rabbit and looked at their captain.


“Dispatch it.”

“Da sir.”

When he got permission, there would be no mercy in his sword. The Czar member was not intimidated by the giant rabbit and used a skill while avoiding the rabbit’s hind kick.

Kkyuu-!

A cross shaped scar was engraved on the snow rabbit’s body. Red blood splashed on the white snowy mountain, Leeha clenched his teeth.

‘Even if the rabbit is high level, it isn’t easy.’

He must shoot now. However, he was blocked by Jin Gonggong when he tried to raise his musket.

“What…”

“Get ready to run.”

“What? Kak!”

Kkyuu, Kkyuuu-!

“Keuk!”

“W-What’s that sound…”

At the spreading vibration, Leeha and the Czar personnel had no choice but to stop their actions and cover their ears. There was only one person who was fine.

“Keuu- Jin Gonggong-nim, what is … that…?”

“That’s the reason you can’t provoke it. It is also the reason why no one hunts here. The moment it feels threatened, the snow rabbit calls its comrade. If Leeha-nim shot it, they would have been running towards us.”

They were rabbits with teeth as long as a person’s thigh. It wasn’t just one or two that called.

When the wounded snow rabbit stopped crying after a long time, Leeha saw the living snowy mountain.

There were literally hundreds of white lumps rushing towards them.

“Boss!”


“…Capture Ha Leeha! Don’t mind the rabbits!”

The Czar personnel were equally perplexed, but it was no joke. They knew that as long as they accomplished their goals, they wouldn’t have to deal with the rabbits.”

“Come on, let’s run!”

“Waaah, where?!”

“Quick! Follow me! Our next destination is the Adamantine !”

Jin Gonggong grabbed Leeha’s arm and started to run.

The pursuit in the snowy mountain started unexpectedly! Leeha felt more frightened of the hundreds of snow rabbits rather than the Czar that was chasing them from behind.

“What… It’s living snow!!”

“Faster, faster! Don’t look back!”

“I’m not looking! This way…”

While chasing after Jin Gonggong’s huge back, Leeha did not forget to look around.

It is one of the roads that appear on the map he looked at earlier. So Leeha already knew what was at the end of this road.

“… Doesn’t this lead to a cliff?”

“Just trust me and run!”

“I’d rather go to the yeti zone to take advantage of the rabbits dealing with Czar…”

“No! I can’t control the angry rabbits! I am not a summoner or a tamer!”

Druids are nature’s ‘friend’.

Jin Gonggong, who was their friend and not owner, could not completely control those living avalanches. Of course, his answer made Leeha even more terrified.

‘Doesn’t that mean that I could get swept away too?’

Anyway, the Czar personnel were not able to increase their speed as much as they could because of the chasing snow rabbits.

While going uphill, the rabbits, one of the fastest creatures, chas and them, so they had to block or counterattack.

In the midst of this, Leeha and Jin Gonggong were approaching the cliffwhere the altitude rose and the wind got colder.

“Catch him! Don’t miss him!”

“Damn it, why is he so fast!”

Leeha wanted to shoot at them, so he behind him, but immediately gave up. As expected, their movements were out of the ordinary.

He could fire the pistol once, but he had no time to aim the musket at a distance. If it wasn’t like Kidd’s revolver, he wouldn’t be able to handle them.

“A little bit more! We’re almost there!” Haa, haa Exhaling, Jin Gonggong pointed into the cliff. Leeha’s expression distorted.

“How do we get out of here? Scroll?”

Leeha and Jin Gonggong slowed down little by little. It was a place where they couldn’t run even if they wanted to.

Even when the Czar personnel and a herd of snow rabbits rushed from behind, Jin Gonggong kept smiling.

His smile seemed a bit scary to Leeha.

“Ha Leeha-nim, do you believe me?”

“I didn’t shoot because I believed you! Just say it…”

“Thanks.”

“W-wait- What are you doing, Jin Gonggong-nim!!!” Even the Czar personnels were flustered by his action. Jin Gonggong threw himself down the cliff.

He flew from the cliff with only ice down below.

“Did the healer kill himself? Great. Activate the capture skill and prepare to return. Team B, block the rabbits for 15 seconds.”

Wooosh-!

The Czar personnels were divided into two groups. Their purpose was to capture Leeha. It was meaningless if they killed Leeha ‘directly’.

“Damn it! Did he want me to kill myself? What! Why did he ask if I believed him?!”

…I should have said I didn’t believe him. Now it was too late to regret.

He should have shot first. He should have shot them when they were still 500m away!

“Catch him!”

“You thought you were going to catch me!?”

Leeha lifted the Black Bass. Even if he shot it in its musket form, its attack power was almost double that of the Hummingbird. He believed that he could kill them in one shot without shooting their head!

Besides, he saw a gap in which they flinched for a moment.

He was concerned about the huge shadow cast behind him but he pulled the trigger right away.

No, he tried to pull it.

“U-uwaaah, what?!”

If it wasn’t for the giant bird that roared loudly and grabbed Leeha’s waist.

“B-Boss?!”

“What the…”

“An eagle in the snowy mountains… and that huge…”

The Czar personnel had no choice but to stare blankly at the situation.

In an instant, Leeha was snatched and rose into the sky,

There was no way for a group of dealer-tank classes to chase after people who were like speeding bullets.

Caaaaawk—-!

A huge golden eagle soared into the sky.

The bird of prey with Brown feathers gleaming in the sunlight from the white snowy mountain felt so sacred.

Of course, Leeha, who was caught by feet bigger than his body, did not feel its sacredness.

“Waaaah! Whaaat?!” He also tried helicopter rappelling before, but its stability was different.

The eagle’s feet felt like the claw in a crane machine, and it was only natural for Leeha, who flew into the sky like that, to feel fear.

“Eeek~ Zen Z…”

Leeha barely came to his senses and pulled out his pistol.

When he looked up, he saw an elaborate pattern engraved on the golden eagle.

He clearly remembered the pattern drawn on the feather, like a tattoo.

“No way?! Surely!”

– Thank you for trusting me, Ha Leeha-nim! Let’s go to Adamantine!

It was the tattoo that was engraved on Jin Gonggong’s body! The tattoo looked like the symbol of a druid!

“Jin Gonggong-nim?! Did you transform? Whoa, what…”

– Thank you for believing in me! I know how tyrannical Czar is!

(To be continued…)

TL’ Corner:

Kijung Gonggong can transform! Amazing!
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Jin Gonggong ran to the cliff because he had a planned escape route in the first place.

He could transform into a golden eagle, but he did not have the ability to immediately fly.

was only possible to soar when he received an updraft from the snowy mountain. Jin Gonggong endured his fear and flew.

They quickly away from the cliff. It could be said that the Czar personnel were like dogs looking at chicken on the roof. No, another thing should be added. In addition to chasing a chicken for nothing, they had to face hundreds of snow rabbits at the edge of the cliff.

“Waah! Greaaaat!”

– Open your eyes wide and take a good look! I have never been able to fly this high before! Let’s go!!

As Leeha flew through the air like a missile, all he could do was scream in response to the tremendous speed.

He made sounds full of joy, enough to cause goosebumps to rise all over the body.

“Let’s goooo!!! Run… no, fLY, Jin Gonggong-nim!”

Piiiiik-!

Jin Gonggong, who had turned into a golden eagle, roared in excitement.

Jin Gonggong landed in a town at the foot of the Adamantine Mountains while holding Leeha.

Compared to the Shazrashian Federation, where the size of everything was based on giants, the town’s size was reduced as if they had come to a dwarf village.

“Phew… We have arrived.”

“It was faster than I thought.”

Leeha remembered the sights he had seen while flying.

There were swarms of people hunting, it was so white that the topography could not be distinguished, and as they got out of the snowy mountain, forests covered the dull-colored mountains


‘Saying that you can go to the Adamantine Mountain from the westernmost part of the Shazrashian Federation… was literally just the starting point. In fact, we must have left the Shazrashian Federation on the way.’

It was farther than Leeha had expected. How long would it take on foot? He thought it might have taken a day or so.

“This is the starting point, so it should still be okay, but I can’t go any further. This is the limit for giants.”

“Ah, right.”

Leeha knew why Jin Gonggong was sad.

Among the feuds between races, the most well-known was the relationship between dwarves and giants.

The difference in size between a dwarf, which could only reach a human’s chest, and giants was more than double.

He didn’t know if it was because of the height difference, but according to Middle Earth’s settings, dwarves hated the giants.

It was a situation where the nearby dwarf NPCs peeked at Leeha, who was talking to Jin Gonggong.

“Thank you for getting me here, Jin Gonggong-nim.”

“Don’t mention it. Thank you for believing and waiting for me. Thanks to Ha Leeha-nim, I was able to complete the snowy mountain, and the last one was the snow rabbit.”

“Are you going somewhere else?” “Yes. Somewhere where there are animals and plants. Haha. My level might be lower than Leeha-nim, but I probably went to more places, right? The fun of Middle Earth is that there are still a lot of places to go to.”

“Haha, that’s true. Please carry me again next time.”

It was another way to enjoy the game. A druid’s job characteristic was to grow by being in harmony with nature. The giant’s thick hand clasped Leeha’s outstretched hand.

“As much as I can.”

“Then, see you next time.”

“If fate wills it, then one day! Polymorph: Swallow!”

As Jin Gonggong ran and jumped, the giant quickly turned into a small swallow and flew away.

“Hmm… A Druid looks more interesting than a musketeer.”

There were many reviews that it could not do well as a tanker, dealer, or healer. Once again, Leeha realized that it was impossible to trust only the information spread on the internet.


“Let’s go up the mountain quickly.”

The snowy mountain was covered with snow, so it didn’t feel rugged, however, the Adamantine Mountains seemed to deny human access.

“Huu, huu.”

Leeha climbed the mountain. As a small hint, he heard that it definitely had a city with a huge forge.

Leeha would not be able to gain anything in a small town with no warp gate.

He had no map, but he believed that he wouldn’t get lost. Because the road that Leeha was currently at, was perfectly maintained.

“Dwarves are friendly.”

The road was maintained better than the Candle Mountain in the beginner’s village.

If one looked closely, one could see that there were various devices and cables that could transport carts in addition to the path that people could use to go up and down.

“Amazing… As expected, only they have the technology!”

They had cable cars and gondolas. Leeha suppressed his pounding heart and climbed the stairs diligently.

Even though it was a well-maintained road, it took several hours to climb, and when he managed to reach the basin-like terrain, Leeha could finally see.

Chiii~ Pheeew…. Click, click, click!

It was a place where cogs were spinning everywhere, unknown machinery emitting steam, and various minerals and equipment were moved!

Hell Anvil, the best city of dwarves, where humans, wood elves and dwarves do business everywhere.

“Who is looking for iron ores~? Warriors, welcome~!”

“Selling Crystal Balls, with 5 hunting grounds stored near the Adamantine Mountain! Level 150~170 express train!”

“If you’re going to the southern part of Minis~ Please take me with you~”

“Going to the Ironwood area. Range dealer over level 140!”

Although the entire basin was large enough to be used as a city, the buildings inside were barely human-size making it feel cramped.


There were even tall wood elves, so it felt like a toy town.

“Wow. Okay, let’s start with the crystal ball record.”

It was a place that could not be reached by the warp gate, so the crystal ball was essential. It would be possible to go to Hell Anvil from the capital using a single scroll.

After saving the coordinates, Leeha went through the crowd to find a blacksmith.

The smith was located in the innermost part of the basin, where a castle or a lord’s mansion would normally exist in a human city.

In addition, the smithies did not exist as buildings but were installed using all the space into the mountain range.

‘It isn’t on the level of an artificial cave. It’s more than that…!’

It was a systematic and developed space! Everywhere inside the mountain, which looked like an artificial cave, was like a dwarf’s smithy.

“The greatest forge… Haha, indeed.”

Leeha couldn’t help but agree as the dwarves had dug into the Adamantine Mountain and used it as a forge.

The appearance of swords and spears completely lined up and organized would make users who visited Hell Anvil for the first time feel intimidated.

“It’s like a department store. It’s fun to do window shopping.”

Of course, this did not apply to Leeha. Leeha discovered a place in the corner while watching the dwarves’ workshop and blowing a whistle-.

‘The continent’s best small-tools store. Bottleneck Blacksmith. There’s only one place that is said to deal with small tools anyway.’

Leeha crept into the place where three stout dwarves were continuously moving their hands.

“Cough, excuse, boss.”

“What kind of bastard disturbs us when we are busy? Are you blind?”

“Oh?”

And Leeha realized that he had made the wrong first impression. Still, how could they treat a guest like that?

Clang! Clang! Leeha gathered his composure while listening to the sound of hammering and then tried again.

“I came here to request a small tool!”

“What?”

“It’s a bullet!”

Stop.

The movement of the dwarves, who until then did not look at Leeha, stopped. The most plump-looking dwarf raised his head and looked at Leeha.

“You are a musketeer.”

“Yes.”

The dwarf quickly scanned Leeha.

“Are you looking for gunpowder or iron bullets?”

“No, I am not.”

“Then?”

Leeha looked around. There were no users near the Bottleneck Blacksmith’s entrance. Only dwarves.

Once Leeha confirmed that the secret could be kept, he quietly muttered the skill name.

“Weapon Transformation: SASR.”

When the Black Bass glowed and turned into a sniper rifle 『 Black Bass: SASR 』, the dwarves could not hide their surprised expression.

“This… This can’t be…”

“God of Anvil! It’s Elizabeth’s gun!”

Two dwarves approached Leeha while trembling.

Another dwarf came over, he stroked his beard full of soot and his eyes twinkled.

“The third of the Three Musketeers.”

Seeing their reaction, Leeha was convinced.

‘Yes. They must have been the ones who made the ammunition for Kidd and Luger.’

It’s here. The place where he could get the strongest bullets.

“I need ammunition for this gun. You should already know its structure. Please make it.”

Leeha spoke confidently. If they knew the Three Musketeers, he did not need to say anything else.

“…Let’s close up. Let’s end the business for today.”

The shaking dwarf turned around and said.

“Follow me, human.”

Leeha followed him. He thought about the dwarf using the expression ‘close up’.

‘It’s narrow…’

The only place they could welcome guests such as humans and wood elves would be the entrance. Upon entering, the space was tailored to a dwarf’s size, so Leeha had to lower his head.

Even the chair barely fit his hips, and the table in front of him was only knee-high…….

“Is this the gun? The one Elizabeth used to shoot at the ‘piece’?”

“Huu, this, this. At first glance, it looks like the 『 Cobalt Blue Python 』, but it is much thinner! How are the internal structures different? Hey, human! Can I check this for a moment…”

“Don’t make a fuss.”

The two dwarves touched the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 and got curious, but they were stopped by the sloppy dwarf.

“How’s cheeky Browless doing?”

“Cheeky…cough, if you’re talking about the director of Brown Bess Academy, of course, he’s fine.”

“What director! He’s a damned bastard, we helped him out so hard, but he didn’t even come to visit me once the war was over. Inconsiderate…”

When the dwarf grumbled, Leeha knew the relationship between the two. He probably was the dwarf that Browless met in his childhood. A harsh tone like that was a sign of intimacy.

(To be continued…)
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“Haha, I will make sure to tell the director when I get back. Can I ask for your name?”

“Did you not see the sign? It’s Bottleneck!”

“I-is that so? I didn’t know it was your name.”

The neck of a bottle is not…Leeha swallowed his last words and nodded.

In a normal store, the customer is king, but not here. This might be the only place in the continent that could make the bullets he needed, so there was no need to play around.

“Heung, alright. Let’s not talk about it anymore. Anyway, you’re here to make bullets, so let’s talk about that.”

“Great.”

When the topic of work came, Bottleneck’s mood changed. Leeha’s eyes also sharpened.

“Can I look at it for a while?”

“If you promise to make the bullets, I’ll show it to you.”

“I don’t know what kind of bullet you need, so how could I make it?”

“The bullet is like this.”

Leeha handed him a folded piece of paper. The length of the bullet and the cartridge case, as well as the size, caliber, and the internal structure where the gunpowder or detonator would be located were all drawn.

Bottleneck’s eyes widened for a moment, but then calmed down.

“He’s similar to that Kidd who didn’t have any charm. As expected, this generation’s trio aren’t fun. Is it because Browless raised them?”

“What are you talking about?”

“It means that our interest in making the bullet will dwindle if you tell us to make it like that. It’s more fun if there’s intrigue and surprise. We are not assembly machines.”


Does this mean that there was no room for craftsmanship? Leeha was surprised by the professional spirit set for the NPC.

“Beard Brothers! Can you make this?”

“Of course, boss. It’s certainly a lot easier to make than the bullets for the 『Cobalt Blue Python』.”

“Hmm. It’s rather similar to 『 Crimson Geckos 』. It’s just that the size and design are slightly different.”

The two dwarves, who had been restless, rushed over from behind and looked at the drawing.

“That’s right. He surely is one of the Three Musketeers. Kidd and Luger’s bullets were made by us. If you doubt our skills, you will lose your neck.”

Bottleneck’s voice was full of pride. There was no need to offend him when he was like this.

“I believe in you. Then, please. Please make a bullet box that can fit the bullets into it as well. One set of five shots.”

Leeha wanted to match all the conditions with the gun that existed in reality. Bottleneck nodded, carefully examining the places where the bullet was combined.

“Good. It’s more convenient for calculating the price.”

“How much?”

“5 gold per set.”

600,000 won for five shots. Around 120,000 won per shot, equivalent to 1 gold.

Leeha’s face was distorted.

“What? Why is it so expensive! Even in America… no, in any case! A normal bullet costs 20 dollars for every 50 rounds, uhm… in Middle Earth it’s worth 20 silver!”

He knew from shooting. It wasn’t cheap either. Because if it was 20,000 won for 50 rounds, it was about 400 won per shot.

But how much was this? He said it was 100,000 won per shot?

‘Don’t let these bastards eat you… Even in the U. S, these types of military ammunition were not sold to the private sector, so I can’t compare the prices, but… isn’t it too much?’

It hadn’t been long since he escaped the expensive price of gunpowder and iron bullets, but he had to live with the high price of the ammunition again! It was only natural for Leeha to complain.

“Did you know that the casings are a bit expensive?! Brass is rare even in the Adamantine Mountains! The detonator, gunpowder, and bullets don’t cost much, but the brass…”


“Is brass expensive?”

“Of course! Fuck, the last of the Three Musketeers is the worst, you came here without even knowing and made a ruckus! The others paid without saying a word!”

As if not wanting to lose, Bottleneck responded, with veins bulging on his neck.

The reason why the Korean military recovered cartridge casings is also due to the high cost of brass. Could this be called realistic, or simply annoying?

‘Damn it, aren’t those bastards loaded with money? If Luger’s bullet is more expensive than mine and Kidd’s, it couldn’t have been cheap…’

In fact, even from a distance, it was hard to imagine that cold-blooded guy jumping up and down because of money.

“If you want us to make it, then we will make it, if not, then we won’t! If you could bring brass…”

“Ah! Wait a minute. You said it was expensive because of brass?”

“That’s right! At that price, our craftsmanship is basically free!”

“What if I can get you the brass?”

“What?”

Leeha opened his bag. If brass was expensive, why not provide it?

“Brass? Oh! Luger and Kidd were not even able to get it, where would you…”

“Where is it?”

“I’ll get it from my bag.”

Leeha took out a huge item and put it on the table, bang-! A yellow-colored ingot.

He got a brass ingot from the Brass Golem. Bottleneck and Beard Brothers looked at the ingot with their mouths wide open.

“Now, how much is it? I got the brass, which is the most expensive, so you’ll make it cheap, right?”

『 Bargaining skill has been activated. 』

『 The probability of persuading the target increased by 38%. 』


Bargaining skill Lv3. Leeha’s preemptive strike was successful.

***

“Then, I will come back in three days! There’s only one gun like that in the world, so handle it with care and don’t break it!”

“Get lost! Beard Brothers! Sprinkle salt, salt!”

“Hihi.”

A set now costs 1 gold, and they added a magazine as a freebie.

More than half of the price had been slashed off from the one that was originally presented. Bottleneck was so angry that he grabbed his beard, saying: ‘Damn you, you’re definitely Browless’s successor, not Elizabeth’s’.

Whether he liked it or not, Leeha just smiled.

Even if the price was reduced, 20 silver per shot was not cheap, but it was still satisfactory.

‘For 20 silver per bullet, I could have made 5 『 Improved Improvised Explosives 』.’

One bullet is worth five explosives. A person with no knowledge about the power of guns and bullets would think that it was a ridiculous price, at first glance.

Most importantly, Leeha had enough financial resources to cover this much, so he was able to leave with a peaceful mind.

‘Material items such as brass ingots are often sold at auctions at low prices.’

People did not know where to use it, so there were a lot of cases where they were disposed of like that.

The supply was low, but the demand was also low. Although it was rare, the price was surprisingly low.

‘He said that they could make a hundred bullets with one brass ingot.’

5 bullets per set, a total of 20 sets meant 20 gold.

If he ordered without the brass ingot, it would be 5 gold per set, for a total of 100 gold.

Then, what if the price of brass ingots on the auction house was less than 80 gold?

‘It would be a jackpot! I should sweep it away.’

Anyway, the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 was left with Bottleneck. It was because it was necessary to continuously check if there were any issues when firing while they made the ammunition.

“Then before I go and sweep the brass… Should I leave the Hummingbird as well?”

Leeha planned to turn the Hummingbird into a pistol using steel wires. If that was the case, it would be difficult to use irregular bullets like the grapeshot.

‘In other words, the Hummingbird would be used for ordinary bullets, and the Needle Gun pistol would be used for grapeshots! Hahaha.’

Leeha couldn’t but open his mouth wide.

He was able to log out only after all the preparations were made, stopping by the smithies and leaving the Hummingbird to the blacksmith who seemed to have the skills.

“It’s been a while since I got to bed. It’s hard to make a living.”

Still, Leeha’s expression was bright.

****

Riiing… riiing…

Even before dawn, Leeha’s phone rang.

“Yaaaawn. Hello.”

– Eong-ah? Were you sleeping?

“Ah, Kijung. What’s up.”

Leeha peaked at the clock. 5 o’clock in the morning. Doesn’t this guy sleep?

– It’s getting crazy now! If you’re not busy, turn on your computer immediately!

“Crazy? What’s going crazy? Is there a war?”

His hazy mind woke.

– What are you talking about! Of course, it’s Middle Earth!

There’s no war. After hearing Kijung’s words, Leeha lost all the strength in his body. He got woken up by a Middle Earth addict.

“Kijung… I haven’t slept at all in the past few days. Can’t I check it out after I wake up?”

– Isn’t it better to watch it in advance? It was posted on Middle Earth’s homepage.

“Post? What post? Did they say my name?”

Leeha thought that he was saying something meaningless. However, Kijung’s voice was serious.

– No, it’s not like that. We’re going to enter Middle Earth’s phase 2.

“Phase 2?”

– Don’t you know updates and patches? I assume it’s probably like that. It means that they are moving on to step 2. Considering that there had never been anything like this since Middle Earth was opened…. He couldn’t figure out what was going to change.

It has been nearly two months since Leeha had started playing Middle Earth. His time in Middle Earth was almost a year.

‘Middle Earth has been open for 6 months in real-time. Considering the 5 times time difference…’

More than 2 years have already passed. Doing the update now would not be considered fast.

“Do you have any information?”

– There are no details yet, but there’s a small hint.

“What was that?”

– It’s 『The successors of all heroes have been decided. Hurry up, attack is the best defense.』.

“Huh? Is that all?”

– Yes. And in the back, it says phase 2. I can’t guess because there were too few clues, but people think it’s a patch because it says “Hurry up and attack”.

Kijung’s words were true, but Leeha’s focus was elsewhere. It was on the phrase ‘the successor been decided’.

“Maybe I was the last…?”

– Hmm? What are you talking about?

“Wait. Let me think about it for a moment.”

Leeha was a musketeer, the third of the Three Musketeers.

What was the achievement and weapon he got? Besides, he remembered the line written on the achievement…‘It will be known all over the continent… Is that what it meant?’

Heroes who were active during the second Human-Demon war.

It is not known what occupation, who, and how many there were, but there should be at least one who had acquired a ‘heroic’ weapon like Leeha.

Did phase 1 end when the last of the Three Musketeers, a job that very few users had selected, appeared as the heroes’ successor?

Although it was not possible to make a hasty conclusion, Leeha was confident that his guess was right.

– What, eong-ah? What do you know?

“Kijung-ah, please connect. I will talk to you in-game.”

– Ok. I’ll log in right now. See you in the capital.

Leeha logged into Middle Earth.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner: Eong-ah – it’s a cuter/closer way of saying hyung, this shows how close Kijung and Leeha really are.

Throwing salt to someone or somewhere is believed to drive demons and evil spirits away.

Bottleneck was so angry that he wanted to throw salt to Leeha. Hahaha

“Last of the Heroes’ successors.”

Does it mean that there were other successors other than the Three Musketeers? Also, is Dragon Knight one of the successors? I assume that most of the 『Outsiders』 are Heroes’ Successors. What do you think?
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“Do you think hyung is one of the ‘Heroes’ Successors’?”

“Your guess is probably right. The next generation of the Three Musketeers. That achievement is A+ grade.”

“A plus! Really? Amazing…There aren’t many of those.”

Kijung’s eyes widened. Since Leeha knew the value of the achievement, Kijung’s reaction wasn’t surprising.

“Yes. And I got a weapon. I don’t know who the other heroes are, or what they do…”

“At least three people succeeded in the footsteps of the Three Musketeers, the heroes of the second Human-Demon war…Like hyung, they also received achievements and weapons, right?”

“Right.”

Kijung took a sip of butterbeer. There were many terms unfamiliar to Kijung, who had been active since the early days of Middle Earth.

“Second Human-Demon war… It was mentioned occasionally during quests, but I didn’t pay much attention to it. In any case, I am not the successor to the ‘Templar’ job. All of the successors have already been decided, seeing that I haven’t gotten such an achievement.”

“There may not have been a hero for the Templar job.”

“Sheesh. Too bad. Perhaps most of the early experts could have taken them? Wouldn’t it be nice if there’s still a spot for an unpopular job like musketeers?”

“Why do your words have thorns?”

“Haha, it’s a joke. Anyway, I don’t know much about the second Human-Demon war, but I have heard about the other members of the Three Musketeers.”

“Ara? Kidd and Luger?”

Kijung nodded at Leeha’s question.

“‘Sleeping’ Kidd is somewhat famous, but… most importantly, as hyung just said, that guy named Luger seems to be ‘Mercenary’ Luger.”

“Mercenary? Is he famous?”


“Very. Maybe if hyung can do things similar to destroying the Rising Sun ten more times, you might get a little bit closer to his fame? No, maybe not. I heard that he fought with the no.1 ranker and they were even. I have heard the rumor like it was a legend.”

This time, Leeha’s eyes widened. Luger wounded Kidd, who cleaned up Czar using skill.

‘I expected him to be unusual but, no way… He fought the no. 1 ranker.’

If he was ranked number 1, Leeha also knew him. It took a while, but there were quite a few videos.

There was a story where a user lost his shadow, and when he looked up at the sky, he saw a man riding a dragon that was large enough to block the sun.

Middle Earth’s one and only ascender, with an image of being almost invincible in the world.

‘That dragon knight and were even…. Really. Well. It’s because he has the armor-piercing bullets. It could have pierced the dragon scales. There’s also the armor-piercing round.’

In reality, it had the destructive power of breaking through an armored tank and turning concrete walls into powder. Even if it’s a fantasy setting, dragon scales couldn’t be stronger than that.

Those who knew Luger’s weapon could roughly guess the battle situation.

“Then, what’s next? That attack is the best defense. Who are you fighting with? And will you attack, or will you defend?”

“Hmm, right. In the end, it means that we need to attack first. The purpose is actually to focus on ‘defense’.”

‘Attack is the best defense’ doesn’t mean fighting blindly.

It also means that you won’t be able to overturn the situation and obtain the strategic victory by passively defending.

‘In other words… The opponent could not be defeated by only defending.’

In the end, there was only one reasonable target that came to mind. Leeha shared his thoughts.

“Demon King…? Will there be an invasion the Demon King’s army? Like the second human-demon war?”

“I don’t know. It’s just a guess.”

“T-Then? If your guess is correct, what should we do?”

“…Well.”

This time, Leeha drank the butterbeer.


The words ‘Third Human-Demon War’ came to his mind. However, there are limits to one’s speculation. Unless there was a quest, or an event occurred, there was only one thing that they could do at this point.

“We could hunt or something.”

“Hunt?”

“Demon King or not, we just have to hunt monsters so that they could not start causing a ruckus. Let’s not make it complicated, Kijung-ah.”

They would respawn anyway, but Leeha’s words made sense. In order to be able to handle any situation, they have to become stronger.

Kijung looked at Leeha and smiled.

“Hyung has changed. You’re relaxed now.”

“Isn’t it something like a strong person’s dignity? I just know that there are times where we can and cannot be impatient.”

“Wow! Awesome! Eong-ah.”

Leeha and Kijung drank the remaining butterbeer and got up from their seats.

“Show me your weapon later, hyung.”

“Okay. I still need to get it. I’ll show it to you later.”

“I look forward to it.”

The two ripped their scrolls at the same time. In the next moment, Leeha arrived at Hell Anvil, and went to the Bottleneck’s Smithy.

“What? It isn’t finished yet?”

The Bottleneck’s Smithy was closed. Surely they didn’t steal it? When Leeha carefully pressed his ear against the door, he could hear chattering inside. Leeha knocked on the door.

“Ha Leeha!”

And a moment later, the rattling door opened, and one dwarf, from the Beard Brothers came out. Unlike the first time Leeha saw him, he looked thin and exhausted.

“Phew… Come in. The boss is waiting for you.”

“Wow… did a war happen here?”


The inside was such a mess that it was impossible to describe it with words.

The first time he came, he had been distracted by the miscellaneous tools and the heat of the flames, but now it looked like a ruin because of the soot of gunpowder everywhere and the holes in the walls.

“War?! It’s like war! Really. This is the first time… no, I have nothing to say. You can talk to the boss.”

The dwarf, with dense veins in his eyes, found it difficult to get angry.

Leeha could roughly guess their hard work. It was because it wasn’t easy to make modern advanced ammunition.

“Bottleneck-nim. You must have been hurt.”

“Ho… hoho.”

Bottleneck had a bandage on his hand. His body trembled for a moment.

“I have stopped doing business! It’s the first time I’ve seen something like this, Kidd and Luger’s weren’t like this!”

“W-why?”

“The legendary dwarf, shining Hammer, sealed this beast for a reason! Take it, take it now!”

Seal? Leeha tilted his head.

“Isn’t it made by a legendary dwarf? Did he seal it?”

“You shameless bastard! If you have eyes, check it out yourself! Oh, anvil God! Oh, shining Hammer, forgive me!”

When Bottleneck went off, one of the Beard Brothers handed the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 to Leeha.

‘See for myself? Ah, come to think of it…’ After changing the weapon, he didn’t see the item description. He didn’t have the time to read it because he was thinking about the bullets.

‘… What the hell is that?’

『Legendary Black Bass』 (Non-Tradable)

Attack power: (User’s Agility) + (User’s Agility * 7)

Effect : Agility +25

Description: After hearing about its range and lethality from Miss Elizabeth, the legendary dwarf decided to seal it up in the form of a musket after her disappearance.

“Nothing like this should exist in the world! I, 『Shining Hammer』 shall seal it for all living beings.”

Perhaps, because of the legendary dwarf’s seal, no one was able to use Black Bass’s original power.

Additional Effect: Additional skills can be activated when the seal is released.

“..?”

There’s no range. There’s no rate of fire either. There were no conditions for use. And it was a weapon of the Next Generation of Three Musketeers that couldn’t be traded.

In fact, Leeha didn’t even notice.

“Legend?”

Legendary-grade weapon! Leeha forgot how to talk.

‘At hero level, the damage is agility * 6. At legend, it’s agility * 7…’

The additional 25 agility was huge, but the attack power that was raised by a multiplier was enough to bewilder those who saw it.

“W-what about Luger or Kidd’s weapons? How about the 『 Crimson Geckos 』 and the 『 Cobalt Blue Python 』?”

“They are just heroic-grade weapons! T-this 『 Black Bass 』 is definitely a weapon made by the devil! If you have any brain you must follow the will of the legendary dwarf!” Bottleneck bit his beard. And the more the dwarves showed their suffering, the stranger he felt.

‘Theirs is heroic, and mine is legendary? Does that mean my weapon is the best?’

It was a natural conclusion.

Pfft, barely suppressing his laughter and lowering the corners of his mouth, Leeha tried to sympathize with Bottleneck’s suffering as much as possible.

“I’m sorry, but I can’t stop using it. but…I will handle it carefully as per Bottleneck’s recommendation.”

“Of course, of course! It might be a weapon that shouldn’t appear in the world!”

“Okay. I will be careful. And the bullets?”

“Cough.”

Bottleneck went silent as if he did not want to give it to Leeha. But what can the NPC do? Leeha had already paid, so he had no choice but to give it to him.

“Bring it.”

The Beard Brothers brought 20 magazines. Of course, there were 5 bullets inside each magazine. Leeha carefully inspected the bullets and the magazines.

It wasn’t an exaggeration to say that the bullet, which costs 20 silver per shot, was the length of an adult woman’s palm.

It looked beautiful to Leeha.

“As expected of the best dwarf. I will be here in a week.”

“Y-you want to come here often?! Do not come! Never come!”

“Hey, why are you like that? You’ve had it rough, but you already experimented on it this time, so you should be able to make it easier next time. Then, I will come again next time! Thanks, Bottleneck! Beard Brothers!”

Now that he got what he needed, there was no need to feel sad.

Leeha put the magazines into his bag one by one and carried the Black Bass on his shoulder. The dwarves clicked their tongues as they saw Leeha’s smiling figure.

“Go away, your thick face is very different from Browless’s.”

“I feel the same way.”

For the dwarves, he looked like a demon going out to the world for the first time. Leeha left the Bottleneck’s Smithy with his hips swinging. It’s now time to pick up the Hummingbird-Pistol.

Can it really be called a dwarf’s technology? As per Leeha’s instructions, the silver pistol with steel wires was worn on his waist, he had nothing to be ashamed of.

‘Now… I am confident that I could even catch Luger!’ Of course, it wasn’t his priority.

“I should start with test shooting. Haha, ahahaha.”

And the location had already been decided.

The place where Leeha went was Tenero, a peak the Rock Mountain, one of the tributaries of the Sentinel Mountain range.

(To be continued…)
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“There are a lot of warriors as always.”

There were some mages, but the place was teeming with warriors holding blunt weapons. After passing the location where the stone golems appeared, Leeha walked up to the vicinity of the copper mine.

‘I need to get some brass ingots in advance…’

The coordinates of Hell Anvil were recorded in his crystal ball, so the supply of bullets was stable.

Creeak…! Creak~

“It’s been a long time. Stone Golems.”

Leeha did not even touch the Black Bass he was carrying on his shoulder.

He did not want to use Black Bass’s long-awaited first shot on a stone golem.

He took out the Hummingbird-pistol and shot the stone golem ! When the testicles shone through the cracks, he shot the Needlegun-pistol with a grapeshot bullet and bang-!

When the two gunfire’s merged together, almost like a continuous shot, the stone golem was already down.

“Phew… I have become stronger.”

In the past, to catch a stone golem, he threw bombs, rolled around, and caused a lot of chaos. Now, he could finish it with just two pistols.

‘It must be because the Hummingbird boasts an overwhelming attack power.’

When in the form of a musket, a level 130 monster could be one-shot. It was funny that a party of level 70 users is needed to capture a stone golem.

Leeha was far from where the copper mine could be seen.

“I wish it would come out sooner…”

He munched on a ratman’s jerky and swallowed it. Anyway, there was no guarantee that the Brass Golem would come out right away as it was a field boss….


Muooooh, muooooh—!

“Huh, ask and it shall be given.”

Just in time, the Brass Golem respawned.

A gigantic golem that flashed gold. Surprised by its robot-like appearance, the surrounding users began to run away all over the place.

‘About 15 minutes or so before a raid team arrives. Hmmm, 15 minutes…’

Leeha slowly sat down.

Whether you call it 『 Legendary Black Bass 』 or 『 Black Bass: SASR 』, it’s a weapon that even the dwarves fear putting a magazine on.

Clap!

Muooooh-!

‘The distance is 330m, the speed is 9…no, 10m/s. Wind direction, southeast.’

If it was a normal musket, these conditions would make the aiming point move by quite a bit. However, what about now?

Leeha’s aim did not deviate much from the head of the Brass Golem. It was shifted at most by one click.

If he shot a musket like this, it would only hit the Brass Golem’s chest.

“It would be like it used to be.”

Hoooo…

Leeha slowly calmed his breathing. Haaaa…

With the same tension as when he first fired a musket in Middle Earth, Leeha slowly pulled the trigger.

!

“Ack!”

A tremendous recoil crushed Leeha’s body.


“Huh, it’s stronger than I thought… It would be unreasonable to stand and shoot this.”

The recoil was so strong even though the repulsion force was dispersed a lot in the prone shooting position. If there was no separate support, Leeha thought it would be quite difficult to shoot in a standing and even in a kneeled down position

‘Luger must have raised his level and stats. In order to shoot that large cannon… He must have had an overwhelming center of gravity, enough to overcome the repulsive force…’

Leeha looked at his body for a moment and hurriedly raised his head.

Right, what were you thinking! He was hunting the field boss solo!

“What?”

However, the shape of the Brass Golem, which had a golden color, was no longer normal.

Muoooh…

He saw a lump of brass falling down the floor, with a scream.

The stone golems that came out as guards of the field boss also stopped moving and were scattered here and there. They had no idea how the boss died.

And seeing that figure, Leeha quickly looked around.

“Did I catch it?”

Was there anyone else there? No, it can’t be.

Before and now, no users could be seen. Seeing the signal flare flying at the foot of the mountain, the raid team was only starting to gather.

“Then really…?”

One shot? Did I kill the Brass Golem in one shot? It’s a field boss. It’s not even a level 30-40 boss, it’s level 100 or higher.

When comparing a level 130 normal monster to a level 100-110 field boss, of course the field boss would be stronger.

From skill usage, patterns, and guard monsters, to overall health, it was overwhelming!

“However, it died in one shot… He, hehe, hehehe.”

Leeha couldn’t even close his wide-open mouth and looked at the Black Bass.


A bullet shell that had bounced off after firing was lying around. It didn’t use gunpowder, so it didn’t produce smoke like a musket.

The legendary weapon did a great job worthy of its name.

“It’s really great. Besides, the notification window… no, let’s pack up first!”

Leeha picked up the bullet shell, put it in his pocket, and stood up. It was quite sad that he had to pick up the casings in the game, but he had no choice if he wanted to save even a penny.

Before anyone else came, he had to erase his traces and collect all the Brass Golem’s items.

“Hu, hu, what is it this time~?”

『 Brass Golem’s Special Plate Boots 』, and 2 Brass Ingots were waiting for Leeha.

“As expected.”

He thought that the Brass Ingots had a 100% chance to drop.

As for equipment, there were different parts, and the number of equipment dropped would also be different, so in the worst case, not even one would drop…

‘Anyway, it’s a profitable business. With one shot of 20 silver, it’s like I’m getting 100 new shots!’

If he had a brass ingot, he could purchase 5 shots for 1 gold. That’s a total of 20 sets.

The Brass Golem’s shield costs 180 gold, so the boots must be over 200 gold!

Satisfied with his achievement, he tore a scroll. As he chose the capital as his return destination, he heard voices from below.

Come on, everyone, get ready!

Did everyone remember what I said earlier? Lightning magic is absolutely forbidden!

Wah, I’m nervous! This is my first raid!

“Hmm, I’m so sorry about this.”

They must have stopped their hunt, gathered a raid team with difficulty, and came all the way over here.

Because Leeha had looted all the items, the traces of the Brass Golem had already disappeared.

“But isn’t the world such a place? People go through all types of hardships.”

After waiting for 10 seconds to teleport using the crystal ball, Leeha’s figure disappeared.

After that, around 40 users arrived at the copper mines gasping for breath.

“Where’s the Brass Golem?”‘

“Oh? Didn’t it appear around here?”

“What? Where is it?”

They wouldn’t have been able to see even the toes of the Brass Golem no matter how hard they searched.

“Well, please set the starting price to 120 gold.”

After putting the boots in the auction house, Leeha felt more at ease.

After the boots get sold, he would have quite a bit of extra money. If he was in a hurry and did not have a brass ingot he could just buy the bullets for 5 gold per set of 5 shots.

‘Of course, I don’t have to. I would have to turn everything into cash except for the minimum required funds. No, the time has come to change my armor.’

One of the things that was always talked about was how hard it was to change armor.

500, okay. Let’s change it later when the opportunity arises.’

In the end, he left like that.

After leaving the auction house, Leeha entered the tailor shop. Sniper rifles were different from regular muskets.

Having confirmed that it was the perfect ‘modern rifle’ that even has a magazine, it was time to focus on the management.

“Boss, please make a bag of this size. Something that could carry a lot of stuff inside.”

“Aigoo, it’s long too. Are you going to carry this weapon with you?”

“Yes.”

A sniper rifle is already a precision object. It was natural to make its case hard, however, it was not easy to transport. In the case of disassembling and reassembling, it wasn’t possible in Middle Earth.

‘I don’t know if it’s possible, so I’ll have to get a soft case first.’

The rifle bag made of high-quality leather and lining was worth 40 silver, after ordering, Leeha entered a quiet alley with no people.

It was time to check the notification window that appeared after catching the brass golem.

『 Achievement: One shot, one kill – Brass Golem (B) 』 Congratulations!! You destroyed the Brass Golem in one blow! You will be the light of the chaotic Middle Earth. We ask that you continue to work hard for humanity’s future. Before that time comes, we hope you get a little stronger…

Reward : Strength +10, agility +4

“Ah, achievement! Right, this is what it was.”

It was what appeared when Leeha caught the Brass Golem. He hadn’t caught a boss monster recently so he forgot.

As the reward given takes the characteristics of the field boss into consideration, his strength and agility increased in line with the ability of the golem.

‘But there’s no hall of fame.’

And this fact made Leeha realize that there were at least three people who could kill the golem in one shot.

‘Well… there’s Luger…. in addition, there are single attack-oriented jobs among rankers such as Pei Wu and Shin Nara who would have tried. Agromni Igor? Number 1 Ranked Alexander?

Considering the rankers as well as the outsiders, there were a lot of people who could pierce the Brass Golem with a single attack.

‘Good… Good. Anyway, I also joined their ranks, right?’

I will chase them. A field boss is a field boss.

Leeha had the burning desire to see who got the hall of fame.

“Hmm?”

There was still one more unread message.

『 You have succeeded in your first hunt using Black Bass 』

『 A quest has been created 』

『 Black Bass’s Seal 』

Description: “This guy is alive, the more it tastes blood, the more he wakes up. On the day the right user appears, black Bass will awaken…The legendary dwarf placed seven seals on the Black Bass. The legendary rifle is waiting for a user to wake up.

Description: Defeat a level 150 monster from 1,000m in a single blow (0 / 1).

Reward: ???

‘Restoration quest!’

There was no accept button. Leeha slowly examined the contents of the quest. However, even after reading, he didn’t quite understand.

‘Awaken… Does that mean its seal will be released?’

It’s an item that already has surprising specs, but what else does it have to show? There were seven of such seals?

Gulp.

Leeha’s throat moved. If only I could release all the seals.

(To be continued…)
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“Well, isn’t it too ridiculous to start at 1000 meters?”

In addition, the available number of targets was limited. A level 150 monster or higher. It’s a huge hurdle for Leeha who was level 146.

‘I’m glad that there’s no failure condition. All right, I’ll break everything. Seal and all.’

Unlocking the Black Bass as well as getting the one-shot achievements of several field bosses. Where are the places that satisfied both conditions?

“Then, how will I know that?”

Leeha laughed. Leeha did not know, but he knew who might.

Leeha walked toward the Holy Grill Capital Branch.

was always crowded. In terms of taste, it could be said that this was a type of relaxation that could only be felt in-game, users sat around at tables in three, four, or five-person groups and enjoyed different types of authentic dishes.

“Who would want to eat at home when you could eat here?”

“That’s right. I ate four-hand lobster and grilled saber tiger before logging out, and my mom made ochazuke.”

“Me too, I only ate katsudon.”

“You fuckers ate something delicious. I had kimchi and fried eggs.”

Leeha, who sat nearby the grumbling users, held back his laughter and gave the password to the waiter.

“I’m sorry, but you will have to wait.”

“Ah, is Madame Ju not here?”

“She is but… There were other guests who came first.”

“A prior engagement? Hmm, anyway, please tell her that I’m here, I will wait.”


“I understand.”

The waiter politely bowed and Leeha waited for a while.

The NPCs in the restaurant hear so much information from the people talking, and that information was reported to Madame Ju.

Even while Leeha was sipping a vodka martini, there were many users hanging around holding onto NPCs to get hints for a quest.

“Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Ah, yes.”

“Please come up.”

The waiter came down again and showed the way to Leeha. Wasn’t she meeting someone? Leeha tilted his head and stood in front of the Holy Grill’s office.

“Madame, you have a guest.”

Creak, as soon as the waiter opened the door, two people caught Leeha’s eyes.

As always, madame Ju wore a glamorous dress, and he saw the back of a slim person wearing shiny armor.

When the person with long straight hair draped over their armor turned around, Leeha could see who it was.

“Ahh, long time no see.”

“Oh? Shin Nara-nim?”

Shin Nara greeted Leeha with a light smile. However, her face was not as lively as usual.

‘She was meeting Shin Nara. Well, she’s a ranker, and if she’s part of the Sacred Knight who live and level up in the capital, it’s reasonable that she knew the real purpose of the Holy Grill.’

Some even call Shin Nara a player who’s almost an NPC. The situation in the Fibiel Kingdom is probably the most familiar to the players.

“You two know each other? Heung, Ha Leeha-ssi, I didn’t think you would be a womanizer~?”

“W-What? What womanizer?”

“Haha, are you getting nervous because of the two beautiful women in front of you? Come, sit down.”


Madame Ju naturally welcomed Leeha and sat him down next to Shin Nara. As it turned out, the conversation between Madam Ju and Shin Nara was not over yet.

‘Then why did she tell me to come? For us to meet?’

It might not be the reason director of the Intelligence Guild of Fibiel Kingdom. Leeha relax.

“You don’t have to be too nervous. Do you think I would eat you right now?”

“Hmm, does that mean you would eat me later?”

“Oh my, whoever hears you would misunderstand. Who was the one who pushed hard at that time?”

Leeha shuddered at Madam Ju’s smile. When he first handed out the lunchbox, they had tested each other out.

“W-what are you two talking about? Ugh.”

Seeing Leeha and Madame Ju like that, Shin Nara’s face flushed. he realized the words they used….

“Hmm? Uh, wait a minute, Shin Nara-nim. It’s not what you think!!”

“Leeha-ssi is really… I guess all men are the same.”

“What! What do you mean the same!”

“It’s okay. I will pretend I didn’t know.”

Shin Nara had a slightly gloomy expression on her face. Leeha was a bit perplexed by her sullen tone.

He tried to give Madame Ju a look so that Shin Nara wouldn’t misunderstand, but she only shrugged her shoulders.

“Actually, it should be a 1-on-1 meeting but… I called you because Shin Nara-nim said that it was okay to bring Leeha-ssi in.”

“Oh, is that so?”

What did she want to know? If it was Shin Nara, it would be something important.

When Madam Ju brought up the main topic, Shin Nara’s expression darkened again.

“It’s something that I couldn’t tell anyone, but I trust Leeha-ssi.”


“What… is happening?”

“The letter has arrived.”

“Letter?”

It appears that Shin Nara was talking to Madame Ju about a letter.

There was a small piece of paper between Shin Nara and Madam Ju. It looked more like a short note than a letter.

“Can I read it?”

“Yes.”

Leeha asked for Shin Nara’s permission and carefully picked up the note. The handwriting was slanted, but he could clearly understand the content.

『 I will take the king. To hell. HAHAHAHA 』 What is this?”

“An assassination notice.”

“Ass…assinaton? King? Are you talking about the assassination of the king of the Fibiel Kingdom?”

Shin Nara nodded her head. What was this nonsense? When Leeha looked at Shin Nara with a puzzled look, madam Ju helped.

“It’s only natural to find it hard to believe. It can be called a playful note… However, wouldn’t it be a different story if such a playful note had been stuck on the King’s bedroom door?”

“What?”

The central palace was the most guarded place in the Fibiel Royal .

Leeha heard it from Browless when he had sneaked into the Royal Archives. The reason for this is because the king’s office and bedroom were located there.

In fact, the king stays in the central palace all the time, so even the people from Fibiel would not be able to approach him recklessly.

‘But someone went and left a note in there?’

However, it’s a little strange. For what?

“Hmm, if they put it for the king- oh- so- in other words… could it have been?”

Couldn’t they have just killed him?

What could a person who was able to leave a note in front of the king’s bedroom want?

“Phew… I’m also thinking about that. That’s why I came here to find out who wrote this note.”

“There aren’t a lot of clues. Since it’s a national issue, we will try to find everything out…. It will take some time.”

Shin Nara and Madam Ju spoke one after another, but it did not concern Leeha.

It was natural that he wouldn’t know anything just by looking at the handwriting, in the first place, he was not allowed to enter the central palace, so what would he know?

The name Shinobigumi came to Leeha’s mind for a moment, however, they were people who only dealt with information.

‘Sasuke’s level is high, but compared to Shin Nara, he’ll be caught and killed right away.’

“A person who can get in without being seen by Shin Nara-ssi… Maybe a job that has something to do with assassination? Isn’t he someone who’s good enough to avoid the eyes of the Sacred Knights?”

“Do you know who it is?”

“No, no. I don’t know anyone like that. Isn’t there a player like that? or outsider.”

“Ah, are you saying that it might be a player and not an NPC?”

“Ara? Ah! Isn’t that what you were thinking?”

Did she limit her thoughts because she always dealt with the capital’s business? Shin Nara and Leeha looked at each other with surprise. Shin Nara naturally thought it was an NPC, while Leeha naturally thought it was a player.

“The 10 highest leveled people in the continent… Two of them are able to move stealthily. It reminds me of one assassin and one dancer.”

“That’s right! Madame Ju, can you focus on those two?”

“Hmm, both of them are difficult to deal with… In any case, I will try my best. Because I’m also a citizen of Fibiel.”

“In the name of the Sacred Knights, please.”

Shin Nara greeted Leeha by hitting her armor and saluting.

“Thank you, Leeha-ssi! I was able to get some clues because of you.”

“I-I didn’t do anything.”

In fact, he didn’t remember that there was assassin and dancer among the top 10 rankers.

“I have to go back to protect his majesty. I want to talk more, but I don’t have time.”

“Ah, yes. You should get going. You are in a hurry.”

“Cough~ If you have anything to do in the Royal Palace, please visit me! Then, see you!”

Shin Nara looked at Leeha with a sad expression for a moment, then quickly turned around and left.

Madame Ju looked at Leeha and Nara alternately and made a nasal sound.

“Leeha-ssi, you have grown tremendously in your abilities and levels, haven’t you? Your deductive ability has improved a lot.”

“What? It’s just that the two of you were missing something so obvious.”

I can’t believe the two of you didn’t think about the players, this isn’t a single-player RPG. Of course, it was understandable. What kind of user would dare kill the king of a country, an NPC?

“So, why did Ha Leeha-ssi come here?”

“I have helped Madam Ju before, so I was thinking of asking for help.”

“Oh my, you’re coming out like that?”

“What are you talking about? We are helping each other. Isn’t it true that you were able to move forward thanks to my hint?”

Leeha shrugged his shoulders and smirked.

When Leeha said that, madam Ju laughed.

“Okay. I will help you out to the best of my knowledge.”

“It should be something you know. Field bosses, especially field bosses that are higher level than the Brass Golem, when and where they appear, as well as their attack patterns, among other things.”

Such high-quality information was not readily available on the internet, but it would be a piece of cake for the director of the intelligence guild.

“Especially over level 150, uhm…I would appreciate it if you could give me information about monsters of that ‘standard’ or higher.”

“I know what level means, so you don’t have to change the term, if you have a map, I could show it to you, do you want me to?”

Madame Ju drew a mark on the map that Leeha took out, marking the field bosses that appeared all over the Fibiel kingdom and their levels, up to the period of their appearance.

(To be continued..)
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“This is the only free information I can tell you. For. Now. Huhu~.”

“It should be enough. I am satisfied with this.”

Looking at the list of field bosses from level 110 to 190, Leeha smiled.

“Ah! One more thing.”

“What?”

“It’s about the second human-demon war.”

“Hmm, I don’t like old stories a lot.”

Madame Ju shook her head and Leeha rolled his eyes and continued.

In addition to the quests of Black Bass, there were other things he wanted to be clear about. The quest that Browless gave him.

“I need information on where the Demon King’s army disappeared to.”

“That’s why I don’t like it. It’s hard for us to know. The risk is too great.”

“What?”

“How about looking for it by yourself?”

“Myself? Where?”

“Where, you say? The Royal Archives. If it’s Ha Leeha-ssi…. The person who holds ‘that weapon’ would find out faster.”

Madame Ju’s eyes twinkled. Leeha stealthily hid the Black Bass behind him but it was already caught by her eyes.

‘Does she know about the weapons of the Three Musketeers…. She’s a great woman, no, a great NPC.’


I have a great relationship with Madame Ju anyway. It didn’t matter if she knew. But he didn’t have to tell anyone.

That is the reason why he ordered a soft case to hide his gun, in order to protect it. Leeha decided that as soon as he left the Holy Grill, he would go get the case first.

“If you say so. I have no choice but to find it out by myself.”

“Sure. We are not omnipotent.”

It was a lie. Being omnipotent.

Leeha playfully gazed at the NPC who could lie naturally.

“Okay. I’ll come back next time then.”

“Buy a present and don’t come empty-handed.”

Madam Ju, who received Leeha’s look, also playfully responded. Has the intimacy increased quite a bit? She was much friendlier than before.

“Okay. Then, see you next time.”

Leeha went out of the Holy Grill. Arriving at the tailor, Leeha carefully put the 『 Black Bass 』 into the soft case and opened the map again.

“Now… Where can I start clearing it?”

Even though the name of the field bosses was written one after another, to the current Leeha, they just looked like monsters for achievements.

Kung-!

***

When the sandworm fell, white light emitted from the tanker.

“Wah! Congratulations.”

“Thank you. We had a great hunt today. I appear to be a good fit for you guys.”

The tankers and dealers sat around and recovered.

They were in a desert wasteland, one of the low-level hunting grounds. It was a place where desert monsters such as sand words, giant ants, and scorpions appeared.


Speaking of level, it was often visited by people who were not yet level 100.

“I think it’s a pretty good place except for it being a little too hot. Don’t you think so?”

“Hmm, it’s very hot, but… Doesn’t it give a good amount of experience? Hahaha”

“There are a lot of things to see in the surroundings. A cactus, like that, is quite charming.”

The mage pointed at the cactus. Cactus colonies grew in various shapes, and some were even in bloom.

“Cactus? Is there something like that?”

“…Oh, then what I saw… Wasn’t there before?”

And the party members felt abnormal. There was obviously no one around, and there was no mark. But a cactus colony? With such a gorgeous shape?

“Wait. I heard of it. I was told to run away when I see colorful flowers in this desert wasteland!”

“Why?”

“I-it’s because—”

Grrr, grrrr-.

The cactus colony began to move with a strange sound. It didn’t even have feet, but the cactus moved? The warrior was about to speak when he suddenly bit his lips.

shook for a moment. The warrior managed to open his mouth.

“-It comes from a boss monster! the Giant Basilisk!!”

Grrrrr–!!!

Parting the sand, a huge lizard appeared. The field boss in the desert hid underground with a colorful cactus colony on its back and targeted users!

『 You made eye contact with Riskos 』

『 You have been caught in the area magic ‘Ant Hell’ 』

“U-Uwaaa!”


“Run away!”

They had no time to react and pull out a scroll.

When the field boss Basilisk, a giant eight-legged lizard, activated its skill, the surrounding ground became hollow and the sand began to slide.

The dealers and tankers slid down towards the center and had difficulty balancing themselves. Of course, at the center of the Ant Hell, the Basilisk’s mouth was wide open.

“What! T-Try using magic!”

“Casting- it’s not possible!”

Only a small number of experts were capable of move-casting. The magician who was not able to cast magic was simply swept away the basilisk’s mouth.

“No way-! I just leveled up!”

Wakuchak, wakuchak, wakuchak.

It took less than a minute for the party of 5 to be wiped out.

Grrr, grrrr!

The basilisk growled in satisfaction.

It prepared to go back into the ground to search for new users, or to wait for users to appear. Then, the basilisk’s head exploded.

Bang! White light gleamed in the desert wasteland, far away from where the blood and brains splattered. ’

『 You have leveled up. 』

Flutter~~ the poncho fluttered and revealed Leeha.

“Ah, you sneaky bastard. I should’ve finished you off yesterday, but I wasted one more day. How could a lizard with a distracting back like that hide so well?”

Leeha was at least 600m away. For a person who blew up the field boss’s head, he was very dissatisfied.

“It was much easier to catch the shining gargolye and the armored bear. Phew, anyway, this ambush monster is the most annoying.”

He opened the map and drew a line to delete one of the names in the list that Madame Ju wrote. It was already the seventh name he had removed.

Leeha folded the poncho, put it in his bag, picked up the cartridge cases, and headed to the basilisk’s corpse.

‘It is what it is. Give me an item.’

What came out was the 『 Basilisk’s Venomous Teeth 』. As a dagger-type item, it must be quite popular with thieves and assassin classes.

He was worried about getting some weird armor, but he was relieved.

“Uh, fine. Then, let’s check out the achievements~”

『 Achievement: One shot, one kill – Giant Basilisk 』

Congratulations! You killed a giant basilisk in one blow! You will be the light of the chaotic Middle Earth. We ask that you continue to work hard for humanity’s future. Before that time comes, I hope you get a little stronger…

Reward : Strength +3, agility +3, intelligence +8

“Hey, it was an intelligent monster.”

Besides, there was no Hall of Fame. Recently, all of the (B-) class to (B) class field bosses, which Leeha-ha caught, had no Hall of Fame. Even though he had seven such achievements.

‘To be in the Hall of Fame, I have to get to B+ level…. The Shining Gargoyle is 140, and the Giant Basilisk is level 130, so if I want to get B+, I probably have to challenge a field boss that is higher than level 150.’

In addition, after using 『 Black Bass: SASR 』, the achievement of hitting from a distance didn’t come out. Since the best achievement for agility was to hit from a distance, Leeha was a bit disappointed.

‘When he used the Hummingbird, hitting the 400m mark was an A-grade achievement. But this time…’

He hit the Shining Gargoyle 550m away, and the Giant Basilisk at 620m. Although they exceeded 500 and 600m, respectively, there were no achievements for each distance.

Leeha thought it was only because it was not a musket.

‘Seriously, hitting a target less than 1,000m away with the SASR, a special mission sniper rifle, is similar to holding a K-2 and shooting it at 100m.’

It may be difficult for some people, but if one knew the trick, one could hit the target 95 out of 100 times.

The Black Bass’s seal quest started with hunting at more than 1000m, so it would be good to look at it as if there are no achievements before that distance is realized.

“Now, let’s sort out the stats and go to the next place. Character Window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 153 (0%) Title: Fearless / Achievements: 46

HP： 4,330 (3,031) / MP: 1,115

Stats:

Strength: 181 (+124)

Agility: 1,379 (+332)

Intelligence: 123 (+72)

Constitution: 145 (+52)

Mind: 40 (+30)

Remaining stat points: 5

He now had 46 achievements. His one shot, one kill achievements increased, and his agility and strength, which he had neglected, rose one after another. Not to mention the points he distributed to agility so far.

“Now that I’m leveling up, the achievements are a little bit disappointing… but it’s okay for now. I’ll put it all to agility!”

He instantly distributed 5 stat points into agility to get it to 1,384.

“The title ‘Fearless’ increases attack power by 10%. And an additional 30% if fighting against enemies that are at least 20 levels higher than me. It can be said that as my level increases, the number of targets that I could get a 30% attack power bonus decreases…10% is still huge…However, it can’t compare to 30% additional attack power.”

Leeha quickly calculated. If he used the 『 Black Bass: SASR 』 with his current agility, what would his attack power be?

‘Whoah, in case the enemy is less than 20 levels higher than me, the attack power would be 14,615.’ It was insane. What if they were 20 levels higher than him?

‘The attack power would be 17,272. It’s almost 20,000.’

The difference in attack power is like shooting the Hummingbird twice.

In order to hunt more efficiently, it would be better to catch monsters that were at least 20 levels higher than him.

“I should clear the Black Bass’s quest first.”

Leeha needed to catch a level 150 monster at a distance of 1000m or more.

‘There are quite a few worthy targets, but…’

He didn’t want to waste a 20 silver bullet on normal monsters.

Additionally, it was more efficient to hunt monsters that were 20 levels higher than him, so it was easy to hunt field bosses of the same level.

“Let’s see, what should I do- ah, here it is.”

He used a return scroll after looking through the list as if he was shopping.

Leeha, who had gained confidence, moved without hesitation.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner: Nothing is happening.
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The hunting grounds in the middle of the Sentinel Mountains were always crowded with people. Orc villages were lined up like a course by level, and there was also a troll area that users could continue to when they were a little more advanced.

Occasionally, ogres would appear, however, it was only a simple high-level monster that a normal raid team could hunt.

In other words, it was a popular hunting ground that guaranteed adequate safety while leveling up!

It was also natural for the guild members of the Byulcho to stay in one place and level up.

“Hunting trolls is getting pretty good, right?”

Kijung raised his voice and clapped lightly.

“Haha, thanks to guild master-nim.”

“Hey~ I did not do anything.”

“You don’t have to be humble, Kay. You’re already a great guild master that surpasses his predecessor.”

“Why are you using respectful words again? You too Tale hyung. You won’t get anything even if you talk like that, so speak casually.”

Kijung, a friendly guild master, watched over the hunt of the newly joined guild members.

He wouldn’t have time to raise his level, but the scene where he took care of each person by himself was enough for the Highlander Tale to look pleased.

After Hyein left and Kijung became the guild master of Byulcho, the first thing he did was change the atmosphere.

It was a case of failure in investment with huge cash at stake, as well as the corruption of the former guild master. It was no wonder that a significant number of the guild members left…

‘Kay took it as an opportunity. We actively accepted new guild members and supported their development, raising the guild’s atmosphere. Probably because Kay was trusted by his original hunting party, the existing guild members did not leave.’

Tale, who was a newly promoted vice-guild master, was friendly as well.

Even Seomgwang and the Dragon Knights predicted that Byulcho would disband, but Kijung succeeded in making the guild stronger.


Uwoooh, uwooooh!

A roar was heard from the forest beyond the Sentinel Mountains. It was enough to startle the users hunting trolls.

“Oh, this sound…Ogre?!”

“Ohh, amazing! Guild master-nim!”

The low-leveled guild members’ around level 140 eyes lit up. After all, when playing in a party with them, Kijung and Tale would not be able to get any experience.

However, seeing those eyes full of anticipation, Kijung did not intend to just pass by.

“Okay. Let’s go for the real test! You can think of it as a large troll with the addition of it being able to pull a tree and wield it, so don’t be intimidated! Byulcho power party, assemble!”

Yes!

“I’ll be tanking so, Tale-hyungnim, please lead the offensive team”

“I understand.”

Even though they only had a small number, it could not even be considered a raid team, the Byulcho guild members were not afraid.

They were with the strongest, ‘Master Kay’, who was able to face Agromni Igor’s attack head-on.

And as long as there was Tale, the master of the two-handed sword, who fought Pei Wu several times, there was no threat to them.

“No, are you ready? It will soon be out of the woods-”

However, the ogre did not exit the forest. One user was running away in a hurry with a blue face.

“Waaaah~~! Run away!! Cyclops”

Kwajijijk, a rock the size of a container box fell over the player’s head who was running away. The user was crushed and burst into an unrecognizable shape.

“…Cyclops?”

“Surely! Is he talking about that Cyclops?”

Uwoooh, uwooh!


When they heard the scream again, the users around them shouted.

It would have been fine if it was only one ogre. Besides, they knew that the guild master of the Byulcho guild was with them, so they were relatively relieved.

However, with a Cyclops, it was a different story. Kijung and Tale’s expressions hardened.

“Tale hyung, what about the nearby players?”

“There are around 73 people. If they would join us and quickly create a raid team…”

“With only about 70 level 130 users, it is not possible…. We need at least 30 level 180 users or higher in order to raid safely!”

The Sentinel Mountains simply meant ‘sentinel or watchman’.

There was a reason to monitor the monsters coming down from the mountain range, but on the other hand, the field boss of the Sentinel Mountains also played the role of monitoring humans.

With one gigantic shining eye.

Tremble, tremble, the trees fell down violently with the sound of the steps. There was the sound of wind splitting from afar along with the shouting.

Waaaah~”

“Run away! Cyclops! Run away!” Another huge rock flew over, blocking the sun.

It was not a rock that a monster ‘like’ an ogre could throw. Although they have not yet seen its appearance, it was already confirmed that it was the field boss. The users around also knew its attack power. The only way to live was to unconditionally run away.

“We will also back away! Byulcho retreat! Hurry!”

The area where it would drop would be wide. If they thought about how it would roll after dropping, they had to run right away.

However, one guild member was not able to move his feet as he saw a human being crushed and bursting.

He was right in the middle where the rock would drop.

“Uwaaak! Save-save me….”

Kijung and Tale, who had been running for a while, managed to turn around. The rock had already reached its peak and started to fall.

Kijung ran without hesitation.


“Kuoooh-!”

“Oh no! It’s already too late, you can’t go!” Tale tried to stop him, but Kijung did not stop.

“Waah! Holy guard stance! Spiritual Shield!”

Boom!

The rock was smashed and dust flew.

Defend? Can users defend against natural disasters? Can they withstand such an overwhelming attack that is nothing like a human attack?

“Guild master-niiim!”

“Waah, guild master-nim!”

Even when all the other users ran away, Tale and the other Byulcho guild members did not. The rock was pushed back to where it fell. It felt like they wanted to save Kijung, their guild master, even if they had to break the rock.

The field boss of the Sentinel Mountains did not just watch

『 Quiquero, the ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, has appeared. 』

『 All humanoid monsters in Sentinel Mountains are strengthened by 10%. 』

How big was it? It looked like it was more than 10m, even at first glance. A single eyeball with an abnormal shape and size, searched for humans as well.

“Kuhaha, kuhaha. Humans~! Hu~maaaaans-!”

『 Quiquero roared. 』

『 ‘Fear’ status effect has been applied. 』

『 You can’t move for 3 minutes. 』

『 Maximum HP has been reduced by 40%. 』

『 Stamina is reduced by 30%. 』

“Keuk, I can’t move…”

“Oh, oh! R-return scroll! I need to use a scroll quickly!”

Except for Tale, all of the low-leveled Byulcho guild members’ bodies stiffened. For a moment, they could feel their future.

All that remained was death.

“Vice guild master-nim, run away too!”

“Get back now! We’re fine- please go ahead and gather our guild members!”

The Byulcho guild members told Tale. All the surrounding users ran away as well. No matter how quickly a raid team could be formed after hearing the news that the cyclops had appeared, it inevitably take some time.

In other words, the only outcome of staying there would be death. Even for those who were able to resist the fear effect.

If it wasn’t for Tale, everyone else would have ran away.

“We could not run away without you. If we run away after seeing the guild master’s sacrifice, we are no longer human. You’re also the vice guild master of Byulcho. We should live together…”

Tale grabbed his sword.

Facing the giant cyclops that couldn’t be beaten even if he was the top swordsman.

“…and die together.”

“Kuhaha! Courageous humans taste even better!”

Cyclops Quiquero stepped closer. A single step towards the insects that are numbered to less than a fistful!

“We won’t back down, you monster! Waist!”

Tale leaped forward at full speed.

Even when he jumped as high as possible, he was not able to reach its head. However, if he stabbed at the back of its leg, its movement speed should slow down!

Chwaaak-!

Blood rained down along with a terrible sound.

“Uwaak, what is this?!”

“Tale-nim! Vice-guild master-nim! What happened? What is this blood?!”

The guild members of Byulcho, who did not know the situation because they could not even turn their heads, shouted. What exactly was the blood that soaked their bodies?

“S-surely Tale-nim?”

“This? Is this Tale-nim’s blood?”

They wanted to sit down with the unknown fear of not being able to directly check the situation, but the abnormal status ‘fear’ did not allow it.

When Tale did not answer, imagination filled the guild members’ heads. The gigantic cyclops Quiquero had crushed Tale. Like catching a fly or mosquito, Tale’s body was squeezed with one arm, and his blood spilled.

“No way! Run away, Tale-nim!! Now!”

“Are you alive? Vice-guild master-nim! Please answer!” The anxious guild members chirped like birds. But Tale did not answer.

“This… What the hell is this…”

It was because Tale himself could not understand the situation.

He jumped towards the cyclops Quiquero. He thought that if he put a sword into its waist, and climbed up on his body to match his movements, he would be able to buy some time to escape.

However, it suddenly rained blood. Even onto Tale, who leaped towards the cyclops.

Of course, Tale could see where the blood had spilled from. No, it wasn’t only Tale, all the guild members now knew.

Because a system message told them what happened.

『 Quiquero, the ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, has fallen. 』

『 All humanoid monsters in the Sentinel Mountains are weakened by 30% for 1 hour. 』

Booom…!

The cyclops’ body fell. It only had one eyeball, and the eyeball of such a huge monster ‘exploded’.

“Is it dead? Cyclops?”

“Waah, Tale-nim is amazing…Have you filmed what happened? This is amazing! Amazing!!”

“This is the first time I saw the cyclops get soloed!! Wahh, damn!!! Ah…sorry. But…really!!! Tale-nim!!”

The guild members, who had their fears lifted, gathered around Tale. The huge corpse of the cyclops had not yet disappeared because it had not yet been looted, which instilled respect in them.

A highlander soloed the cyclops, a level 180 field boss, and the ruler of the Sentinel Mountains!

“AH, no, I did not catch-” Tale, who was contemplating how the cyclops died, lost the time to speak.

The guild members who had gathered around were taking screenshots, recording the direction in which the cyclops had appeared, and were in awe.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 195

				
Translated by: xLordFifth

Edited by: Aadhitya

Edited by: Spitfirus

‘So… What happened? I can’t understand. There’s obviously no one around.’

Even if he scanned the area using the Highlander’s spirit, there were no players. He felt 70 low-level users running to a place, but that was all.

“Hmm?! Gather everyone! We must break the rock!”

“What?”

“Guild master-nim is alive!”

After searching, he felt that the guild master was alive in the rock. As Tale and the guild members rushed in, the rock cracked open.

“Phew, I wondered when we could get out. Are you okay?”

“Thank you, thank you, guild master-nim!”

And in the rock, Kijung, who had wrapped himself around the guild member as a shield, laughed. The loyalty of the guild members rapidly grew.

“…What? What was that?”

“It just died.”

“Didn’t Tale hyung catch it?”

“Maybe. As guild master-nim knows well…”

Kijung, who just got out, heard the story. All they were talking about was ‘Of course, the cyclops died when he jumped’.

“No, of course…You have the same level, and hyung is physically capable, so I think you could- huh, then who caught it?”

“I don’t know.”

Tale shook his head at Kijung’s question. All the guild members of Byulcho were also surprised.


“How many people could kill a cyclops in one shot?”

“Are they probably one of the top 10 rankers? That should be right because they didn’t even take the loot.”

“There’s only one person in the top 10 who could deal with it in one shot. someone from our country.”

“Bobae-nim? ‘The Archer’ Bobae?”

“But Bobae-nim’s maximum range isn’t that long. Isn’t his limit around 250m?”

“That’s already long! Where in Middle Earth can you find a weapon with a range that is farther than 250m? Magic can’t get farther than that too.”

Kijung and Tale’s eyes widened at the same time as they heard the chatter of their guild members.

Far enough to be undetectable. With the ability to hit the cyclops’ eye.

“No way!”

“T-Tale-hyungnim thought of the same person, right?”

The two of them turned their heads and looked around. They did not hear any gunshot and there was no white smoke.

“Why, guild master-nim?”

“No, wait.”

Kijung turned on his friends’ window. He wanted to check Leeha’s position. As he was about to check, Tale called Kijung.

“Guild master-nim.”

“What?”

“There…”

And Tale pointed in one direction. All eyes were focused on one place. Kijung could also recognize someone walking from a distance.

“Leeha hyung?!”

“Oh? Kijung-ah? Tale-nim? Why are you here…?”


Leeha was also confused. This was a troll hunting ground at best.

He just followed Madame Ju’s information that the cyclops will respawn soon. Why were the two of them, who have long surpassed level 200, here?

“H-h hyung~!”

“Ha Leeha-kun, this?”

Kijung and Tale rushed at him, but Leeha avoided their hands. Kijung and Tale had many things they wanted to ask, but their doubts were resolved without a word.

“W-wait a minute. I need to loot. The corpse will disappear soon.”

Because Leeha rummaged through the cyclop’s corpse.

“Ugh, it didn’t even give a good item. Damn it. Why is it 『 Cyclops’ Crystal 』 again? Where should I use this? Ah, come to think of it, I popped its eyeball, is that why they gave me this? Middle Earth can be cruel sometimes.”

Kijung and Tale stared blankly at Leeha’s figure, waving the cyclops’ eye and smiling.

How should they interpret his appearance that had no tension in it while looting the cyclops, the so-called ruler of Sentinel Mountains?

“…Wow.”

The Byulcho guild members were speechless.

He was quite famous, but there were so many incidents happening in Middle Earth that Leeha’s name was easily forgotten.

They couldn’t even remember the nickname 『 Arcane Sniper 』, or 『 Sunset Outlaw 』 who disbanded the Rising Sun.

He only looked like a strange person who smiled while ripping the cyclops’ eyeball.

“Okay, it’s finished. Ah! Kijung-ah, what are you doing here?”

Leeha, who finished looting the cyclops’ corpse, held the soft case containing the Black Bass and smiled.

With the exception of the ordinary guild members, Kijung and Tale moved together with Leeha.

“Whoah, where is this?”

“It’s one of our safe houses. You can’t bring anyone who isn’t a guild member here, of course, hyung is an exception. No, this is not the time to talk like this!”


Kijung flopped down on a chair and changed his tone.

“What the hell happened, hyung? You caught a cyclops in one shot?”

“I told you before. I got a weapon.”

“Ah… is it that? Hero’s successor?”

“Yes.”

Tale couldn’t understand the entire conversation between the two of them, but he did not interrupt. He quietly made tea and gave it to Leeha and Kijung.

“Ah, Tale-nim shouldn’t do this!”

“No, it’s okay. Ha Leeha-kun has always helped us, so I am glad I could bring you a cup of tea like this.”

“Aigoo. Thank you. I will drink it well.”

“Thank you, Tale-hyungnim.”

When Leeha and Kijung thanked him, Tale smiled brightly. How can cousins have such similar personalities?

Kijung took a sip of tea and asked Leeha.

“Perhaps, hyung is sweeping field bosses these days? Our guild members said that they saw a field boss fall as soon as it appeared. Did you catch the armored bear lately?”

“Oh? Ah, yes. Your guild members must have been nearby.”

Kijung clicked his tongue after Leeha said he caught a field boss as if he had only caught an orc or troll.

“What the. No, aside from the armored bear! You shot the cyclops from an invisible distance, but it was killed in one shot? It must have been at level 185.”

“Yes. I know. I also knew that the eye was its weakness. I knew that he’s very protective of his eye… but he’s not my match.”

Because I’m not shooting with muskets anymore. For muskets, the bullet speed is only 300~350m/s.

It was impossible to hit a distance of 1000m using a musket because once it is fired, it would take 2 seconds for the bullet to hit.

In other words, a bullet that slows down while flying would arrive later than the sound. It would have had enough time to notice and protect its eye.

However, if it was the 『 Black Bass 』 which was modeled after a real-life sniper rifle, a normal monster would not be able to react.

‘The speed is different. The speed of the rifle is around 823m/s.’

It was twice as fast as the speed of sound.

At a distance of 1,000m, the cyclops would have already been pierced in the eyeball before it could even react. No matter how sensitive it was in protecting its eyes.

“Crazy. That’s really crazy.”

After hearing Leeha’s explanation, Kijung clicked his tongue and shook his head.

Leeha told him that he got a weapon for being a hero’s successor, but Kijung couldn’t believe that it was this big.

“Thanks to it, I was able to gain 4 levels. That’s crazy enough. Ah, there’s also a hall of fame achievement. Heuheu. Cyclops is pretty crazy.”

“4 levels? What level are you now?”

“157.”

Claang…

Tale dropped the tray. There was nothing new to his surprised expression.

“H-Hyung, didn’t you say you were 120 a while ago?”

“Hey, when was that!! You didn’t think I was doing nothing?”

“When was it? 10 days at most? No, was it a month ago? You gained 30 levels in a month!”

He one-shotted the boss of Dale Castle’s Sealed Underground Waterway instance dungeon repeatedly.

It was only natural for Kijung to shout since Leeha’s hunting speed was something that ordinary users couldn’t dream of.

Besides, his stats went up more than his level did…. Of course, he didn’t bother talking about it.

“Ah, I didn’t come all the way here to talk about this. Hyung, did you know?”

“What?”

“Shin Nara is doing a quest related to the Royal Palace.”

When Shin Nara’s name came out, Leeha’s body stiffened. It reminded him of the encounter that they had just a few days ago at the Holy Grill.

‘Is it related to the assassination of the king? Come to think of it, did they find the person who left the note?’

Kijung opened his mouth before Leeha could ask any questions.

“Hyung is close to Shin Nara. Can we join the quest?”

“Huh? What? What kind of quest do you want to join?”

“I don’t know either. But since it’s related to the Royal Palace, I guess security is necessary. Shin Nara is gathering experts, but it is said that she was having a hard time doing it. Unless it was someone she can trust…”

Was he able to hear this kind of news since he became the guild master of Byulcho? Leeha suddenly became curious about Shin Nara.

When Leeha got silent, Kijung opened his mouth again.

“Even so, byeolcho doesn’t have much reputation. Can you introduce me and Tale hyung, to Shin Nara, hyung?”

When Kijung’s eyes shone, Leeha was not able to do anything. Most importantly, Leeha was curious about how Shin Nara’s quest was going on.

“Okay. I understand. I’ll go to the capital and ask first.”

“Yes!! Thank you, thank you, Leeha hyung!”

“It’s not confirmed yet. Anyway, I will try and ask.”

“Okie! Right now, I am level 219, and Tale hyung is 216, you know our jobs, right?”

“Oh, ooh. Of course.”

Leeha was surprised for a moment because Kijung and Tale’s leveling speed was unexpectedly fast.

How could people who exceeded level 200 level up so quickly?

‘They weren’t even 210 recently, now they’re almost at 220.’

He needed to chase faster. Fortunately, he had an additional ability to do so.

Leeha teleported to the capital and opened the quest window.

『 Black Bass’s Seal-1 』

Description: “This guy is alive, the more it tastes blood, the more he wakes up. On the day the right user appears, black Bass awakens…The legendary dwarf placed seven seals on the Black Bass. The legendary rifle is waiting for a user to wake it up.

Description: Defeat a level 150 monster at a distance of 1000m or more.

(1 / 1)

Reward: ???

“Now, what would the reward be ~?

『 You have completed the quest Black Bass’s Seal-1. 』

『 You have learned the skill: Mana Clairvoyance. 』

『 Black Bass’s Seal-2 quest has been created. 』

(To be continued…)
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“Hmm? Skill?”

The reward was a skill.

Leeha was a little disappointed, he had secretly hoped that 『 Black Bass 』s attack power would increase to times 8 or 9. Checking the item description again, nothing had changed.

‘Well, 7 times is already fraudulent. I can’t even tell this to Kijung. I couldn’t even sleep because of the surprise…’

Kijung and Tale knew that he had killed the cyclops in one shot from afar, but they didn’t know the attack power and the range of the 『 Black Bass 』.

‘They think that I just hit the cyclops’ ‘instakill’ point because of my skill. Well, I don’t think there is a multiplier of 8 or 9 times.’

Leeha guessed that the hero level was times 6 because it is the 6th item grade, and legendary is times 7 because it was the 7th item grade.

If that was true, the attack power multiplier would not increase anymore.

Because there has never been an item with a grade higher than Legendary in Middle Earth.

“Tsk. It’s a bummer though. It would be nice if it could rise until times 10. Heuheu.”

Leeha opened his skill window and checked his newly acquired skill.

『 Mana Clairvoyance 』

Description: The Black Bass never misses its prey. Wherever the prey may hide.

Effect: Capture the movements of the target beyond any obstacle.

Mana: –

Duration: 5 minutes

Cooldown: 30 minutes


“Hmm?”

It had neither a grade nor a level. It didn’t even cost mana.

‘What…It’s like 『 Black Bass 』 is using the skill and not me.’

Leeha felt it was a little creepy when he saw the description of the skill, describing it as if the item was the one using it.

He was able to get a rough understanding of what the skill’s effect was just from the description.

‘Mana Clairvoyance- if my prediction is correct!’

And Leeha tried using the skill in the middle of the capital.

Ziing~! All kinds of movements entered Leeha’s field of view along with a buzzing sound.

He couldn’t see the face, but he could clearly see the person bending over and lifting something up behind the wall.

“As expected… It’s like infrared vision.”

Swish, swish, Leeha turned his head to check the range of the skill.

If he could move while using the skill, he would not be subjected to an ambush, and even if the target was hidden, he would be able to find them quickly.

‘If I had this earlier, I would have found the basilisk hiding in the ground.’

He could also hunt efficiently without waiting for a long time. It would depend on how it would be used, but whatever it may be, Leeha prioritized his actions.

“It’s only the first seal, but something like this has already come out.”

As he unlocked a skill that made a lot of things easier, Leeha smiled. And he checked the new quest.

『 Black Bass’s Seal-2 』

Description: “This guy is alive, the more it tastes blood, the more it awakens. A legendary dwarf sealed Black Bass.

On the day the right user appears, black Bass will wake up again. The legendary rifle is waiting for a user to wake it up.

Description: Defeat a level 170 monster from 1500m in a single blow (0 / 1).


Reward: ???

“Hmm? Nothing changed?”

He didn’t notice it at first because the numbers changed subtly, and Leeha realized it after a while. He could not help but frown.

“Oh… No, the change isn’t subtle at all, this is too much!”

He needed to hit the target from 1,500m away. The target also changed into a level 170 monster or higher.

‘It’s not easy to hit a target 1.5km away! Besides, it’s not easy to find such a location! Why did the distance increase by 500m and the monster level by 20?!’

In other words, it was like going up the Namsan N Seoul Tower and hitting the target, which was in Seoul Station.

From the Southern end of Mapo Bridge to the Northern end, across the Han River.

Even with a fairly good sniper rifle, it is quite difficult to do.

‘Of course, that’s for a normal person. I can do it. I have done it before. I have been able to shoot up to 1,800m. It should be fine until then.’

It was annoying, but it was worth a try. It wasn’t worth a penny if it was a musket, but with a rifle he was able to do it.

However, Leeha couldn’t help but imagine what would happen next.

The second quest was 1,500m. Will the 3rd seal follow this pattern?

‘Surely, it’s not something like level 190 or higher at 2000m. Ah, surely. Haha, there’s no way. Is there?’

Leeha forced a smile, but his eyes were not smiling at all.

1,500m would be a difficult distance to measure using the ‘Eagle’s Eye’ Skill. But if it goes up to 2000m…

Gulp.

“L-Let’s not think of something so ominous.”

Leeha shook his head, confirmed Shin Nara’s location, and walked towards it.

“Tell me your affiliation, name, and touch this plate.”


“Independent, Ha Leeha.”

The number of inspections had increased compared to before. The atmosphere alone made him guess what the insides of the Royal Palace was like.

“Welcome, Ha Leeha-nim. For what purpose did you come?”

“That…I came to see Shin Nara-nim.”

“Is it Sacred Knight’s Dame Shin Nara?”

“Yes.”

“Okay. I will guide you to the Eastern Palace.”

Now, he had accumulated enough achievements and fame to enter the royal palace alone. Leeha was guided to the Eastern Palace, where he had come ‘secretly’ before.

There were many people with sharp expressions while holding their halberd. The guards of the Royal Palace of Fibiel. Of course, in addition to the guards, the Sacred Knights were also lined up.

‘Amazing. They have mobilized this much? Well, they can’t say something like, ‘I’m sorry, I made a mistake’ if they can’t stop the king’s assassination.’

What would happen if the king died? Leeha recalled the night when he had a conversation with Kijung.

‘Is this phase 2?’

But it didn’t fit the phrase, ‘Attack is the best defense’. No matter how much Leeha thought about it, nothing came to mind.

“You can wait here. I will call Dame Shin Nara.”

“Ah, yes.”

After being guided to a place that looked like a waiting room, Leeha was alone.

A player that was assisted by an NPC, Shin Nara. If she was a normal player, Leeha would have just whispered ‘I’m here’ and it would be over.

‘At a time like this, a position is not always a good thing.’

As expected, for Leeha, getting stuck in one place was like rat poison.

– Ah, Leeha-ssi! They said you came to the Royal Palace?!

– Yes. Are you busy right now?

– Sorry. The guard came and told me, but I still have some work to do right now! I’m really sorry, could you please wait for 20 minutes?

– Sure.

We could whisper if you’re busy. After Leeha heard Shin Nara’s situation, he got up from his seat. Since he came to the palace anyway, he had to do what he had to do in his spare time.

‘Find out where the Demon King’s army retreated.’

Leeha left the room and headed to the Royal Archives. He had been here before, so it wasn’t difficult to find the way.

“Let’s see…Do I need to put my hand here?”

There was a crystal ball in front of a wall. When Leeha put his hand there, light flickered.

“… Oh?”

However, that was all. When Browless touched it, a light flashed and the wall opened.

“A-Again.”

He put his hand on the crystal ball and light flashed. However, nothing happened. It flashed again and again.

“What? Why…”

Creeak. It was then that the wall began to crack.

‘Ah, does that mean it also takes a while to load? Hehe.’

It was then that a person came out, and it was someone Leeha knew.

An NPC wearing glasses, clark, who was once called the chief clerk, appeared.

“Who are you? Who comes to the Royal Archives without an appointment? Every time you raise your hand the alarm goes off inside!”

“Ah, sorry. I came to look for a document. Perhaps…”

The Royal Archive was a location that cannot be entered without prior reservation. Leeha wanted to, but it was already too late.

“Oh? Y-You?!”

“What?”

“A-Aren’t you the person last time? The former trespassing suspect!” Clark recognized Leeha.

“No?! No sir? What do you mean?”

“Right, sure! Where is this? How dare you show your face again? I will get you arrest-”

“W-wait a minute! I think you’re misunderstanding! I am a person who can enter the Royal Palace from now on.”

Clark, who was about to sound the emergency alarm, stopped. Anyone who could walk into the Royal Palace in the ‘current situation’ was surely already qualified.

“Ahh- good. I’m not going to report it. However, I hope you don’t approach the Royal Archives. Even if you are qualified, I will never let you in. I have the authority to block the access of a suspicious person as a ‘Chief clerk’ at the Royal Archives!”

“Oh? Wait! Tell me-”

Clark quickly disappeared through the crack in the wall. Rumble~ The entrance to the Royal Archives closed again.

“…What’s… the big deal?”

Far from using his time efficiently, the path of the quest was blocked. If he came out like that, even if he applied for a reservation to use the Royal Archives, it would not be accepted.

‘Well, the NPC has the right. Damn it.’

What should I do? At least now, he had no choice but to go back.

Leeha went back to the waiting room. After a brief wait, Shin Nara arrived.

“Leeha-ssi.”

“Hup, Nara-ssi?”

A pale face was exposed. Fatigue did not accumulate in Middle Earth. Even so, if a person is so tired, it would make it look like that…

“I don’t look good, do I?”

“N-no. That’s not it.”

“I know. I haven’t been able to log out since that day. I couldn’t sleep…”

“What?!”

That day? Does she mean the day they met at the Holy Grill? It’s already 10 days in Middle Earth’s time. It meant that she hadn’t logged out for 48 hours In the real world!

“It’s too hard. Phew… ah, what are you doing?”

Shin Nara still welcomed Leeha with a bright face.

Leeha also knew this because he worked hard in the sewers. It made his head dizzy. Most importantly, it must have been a hard load on the brain.

Leeha sadly looked at Shin Nara’s face and opened his mouth.

“As a matter of fact… I heard that you were looking for people.”

“What? L-Leeha-ssi, that…”

“I have my sources.”

“…Pheew, that’s right. It’s because of the assassination note that Leeha-ssi saw last time. I received a quest.”

“Quest?”

(To be continued…)
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Shin Nara looked down for a moment.

According to her memory, Leeha was a person who excelled in surprises, such as disbanding the Rising Sun, and killing Igor, but lacked the level or stats.

‘But he’s a man of good faith. To the extent that he risked his life for someone he didn’t know.’

So whenever Shin Nara thought about Leeha, she felt her heart flutter.

It was not an exaggeration to say that Leeha was the only user that Shin Nara, who knew a lot of NPCs but lacked the relationship with ‘users’, trusted and gave her peace of mind.

Nara decided to confide everything to Leeha.

“Can you hear me out? What I did after that day.”

Shin Nara took out the note from that day and opened it. Leeha understood what it meant to get back what she had left in the Holy Grill.

“Who was it?”

“At that time, do you remember that we were able to pick out two suspects thanks to Leeha-ssi?”

“Yes. The two most obvious ones from the top 10 rankers were the assassin and dancer-”

“That’s right, madame Ju is convinced that the assassin ranked number 5, ‘Crazy Clown’ Petyr.”

“5th place, better than Nara-ssi.”

“That’s right. And that’s not all. I’m familiar with his notoriety.”

..

..

Even though she only mentioned his name, Shin Nara’s face darkened. Shin Nara was ranked 6th. In other words, it meant that the possible suspect had a higher level than her.

‘Moreover, his job is specialized in assassination and infiltration. The level is not good enough, and the match isn’t good either.’


Leeha had heard of the ‘Crazy Clown’ before. In the first place, the quests given by his Vocational Academy were operations such as assassination, destruction, and espionage.

‘If one wanted to play a stealth action game, the best job would be an assassination.’

Is it that kind of thing again this time? While Leeha was thinking, he heard Shin Nara’s voice again.

“I couldn’t dismiss it as a joke, and once we identified the suspect, I couldn’t log out anymore. The NPCs did not trust me-”

“Guards? Royal Guards? What about the NPCs who protect the king?”

“They didn’t believe me, saying that it didn’t make sense to have such a note in the king’s bedroom in the first place…. ”

“What? Can they do that?”

“That’s why I thought I needed proof to convince them, so I went to Lotzac.”

“Lotzac!”

Leeha suddenly felt like a bell rang in his head. Who was Rotzak?. He hid the betrayal of the former generation of the Three Musketeers in the second Human-Demon war.

‘Of course, they hid it- In fact, all the NPCs who knew about it got their memories erased with magic.’

It could be said that the reason NPCs like one-armed ‘Lepanto’ wandered around becoming a beggar were all because of Lotzac. When he heard the name of that person again, Leeha felt a tingling sensation.

“Do you know him?”

“N-no. I have heard of him a few times while doing quests. Isn’t he the Chief Mage?”

“That’s right. The Royal Palace Mage Team can monitor the entire palace. Using earth magic and elemental magic-”

“Ah! Like a CCTV?”

Shin Nara nodded her head. In other words, if she could secure evidence from the mage team, she could persuade the guards to take a firm defense.

Of course, given that she was having a hard time now, lotzac might have been uncooperative.

“Yes. But Lotzac didn’t even meet me. Even if he was the Chief Mage, it was still an official request from the Sacred Knights……. In the end, I had no choice but to mobilize members of the Sacred Knights and place them in the Royal Palace.”

“At least you did.”


“Are you relieved? The guards are not on good terms with the Sacred Knights, that’s why all the NPCs are standing by in the Royal Palace.”

“Aren’t they both guarding the Royal Palace?”

“Strictly speaking, the Sacred Knights ignored the tradition of only protecting the capital and entrusting the Royal Palace to the Royal Guards but……. It’s an old fight. Even before I became a Sacred Knight- I guess it’s the original setting for Middle Earth.”

The NPCs are fighting over the rice bowls! Leeha realized. That’s why there was such a ghastly atmosphere at the entrance of the Royal Palace.

It wasn’t because of the possible assassination of the King that they were alert, it was because they were annoyed that people who could threaten their rice bowl came into the Royal Palace.

“Ah..”

Leeha realized why Shin Nara’s face had become so pale. She had to act by understanding the thoughts and psychology of Artificial Intelligence, the NPCs so to speak, and not the users.

‘Besides, they’re not even ordinary NPCs. All of the people related to the Royal Palace must have been strong and have good heads.’

Shin Nara had to deal with NPCs like Leeha had when he dealt with the owner of the general store.

“In the end, they run around to the point of making the atmosphere of the Royal Palace ghastly……. It’s a situation with no results. And then this happened.”

“This- Ah.”

Shin Nara shared the quest to Leeha. It was easier to understand if he looked at it himself rather than hear a hundred words from Shin Nara.

『Uninvited Guest』

Description: Rumors about the king’s assassination are floating around the palace like a ghost. It is a situation in which the Sacred Knights, royal Guards, and Royal Mages could not trust each other! They must protect the pillars of Fibiel with their own strength. If the assassination can not be stopped, a bloody war will once again begin on the continent. (2/10)

Content: Stop the assassination of the Fibiel’s king for 50 days (48 days remaining)

Reward: The intimacy with the Fibiel Royal Family will increase by 20%, the intimacy with the Sacred Knights will increase by 30%, Fibiel National Contribution + 200, 1 gold

Condition for failure: Death of the king

Penalty for failure: The intimacy with the Fibiel’s Royal Family will decrease by 30%, the intimacy with the Sacred Knights will decrease by 50%, intimacy with all of Aelstock’s NPCs will decrease by 20%, Fibiel National Contribution -300

Additional Reward: The intimacy with Fibiel’s Royal Family will increase by 5% if the assassin is captured or killed.

– Would you like to accept?


Leeha opened his eyes and looked at the text.

‘The organizations do not trust each other? This……. It’s not a simple rice bowl fight between NPCs.’

They knew the cost. The Royal Guards, the Sacred Knights Leader, and even the Chief Mage – Lotzac. It means that they have the guts to harbor certain ‘doubts’ about each other. ‘Besides, what was the last line? A bloody war on a continental scale? War? No, there’s a reason. The most powerful country on the continent is Fibiel. The surrounding countries, especially the openly hostile Minis Kingdom, would never miss the opportunity when the king of the strongest nation disappeared and the country is confused. If we are not able to stop this… War? Is it talking about the war of nations?’

Gulp. Leeha barely swallowed dry saliva.

‘Even though the quest was a serious problem, there was barely any reward……’

And the harsh penalty for failure that was unique to Middle Earth stood out even more. Shin Nara looked at Leeha’s eyes and let out a sigh.

“That is why it is even harder to find people. People who know the seriousness of the incident don’t want to get involved……. I thought they were reliable people in their own way.”

“T-That’s right. Still, if there are two out of ten, are there two people who came to help Nara-ssi?”

“One is me. The other one is my friend.”

In the end, even though it was a quest to gather 10 people, it meant that only one person came to help her. Leeha nodded.

‘Nara-ssi is right. It’s a quest that is best avoided if possible. People don’t want to get involved in this.’

They could get stranded in the Royal Palace for as long as 50 days. Two days have already passed, so there are still 47 days.

If an expert like Shin Nara got this task, they would have needed to meet the requirement of entering the Royal Palace, so they would not need the Fibiel Kingdom National Contribution anyway.

‘If I include the wasted time, there would be nothing to gain, and there is a lot to lose if the quest fails.’

Shin Nara’s face darkened even more as even Leeha kept his mouth shut while thinking.

“Hu, huhu……”

“N-Nara-ssi?”

“I’m going crazy. I’m so upset and it’s so hard.”

Tears didn’t flow in Middle Earth. However, it was as if Leeha could see transparent tears flowing down her eyes.

“Nara-ssi……”

“Huhu, huhuhu-”

Shin Nara sat next to Leeha and leaned on his shoulder. Leeha was so flustered that he couldn’t do anything. What should he do in this case?

As Leeha remembered Shin Nara’s usual self, who had a cheerful and sassy personality, the current situation flustered him even more.

‘Uh, hmm……. When I see it in the movie, I obviously should raise my arms- s-she wouldn’t suddenly slap me on the cheek, right?’

Leeha carefully raised his arms onto Shin Nara’s back, who was crying without any tears. Shin Nara’s body twitched for a moment as he touched her hand, but that was all.

Rather, Shin Nara’s hot breath and large bump pressed on Leeha’s arms even more. Leeha was even more perplexed.

“Do not cry. It’s okay.”

Shin Nara, who had been holding her breath for a while, opened her mouth again as Leeha patted her back and consoled her silently.

“It’s okay for me not to be able to sleep. I’d rather it be hard on my own. I’m sorry for my friend who got involved, and I am also anxious that something would go wrong and Middle Earth would change! Because of me, because of me who didn’t succeed in one quest, I’m afraid I have to avoid other users as well, – huhuhu.”

“Nara-ssi……”

Patting Shin Nara on the back, Leeha was startled by what she said.

To be precise, he was amazed at the responsibility she had for the game Middle Earth.

She was just a user who enjoyed the game. However, has this ‘place’ of virtual reality, which was more realistic than reality, put the blame on her?

‘To think that one’s choice, one’s play, affects the whole game- and thinking about all the other users that would suffer from it-’

Is this what a top 10 ranker is?

No, she was closer to an NPC than a user, is it the weight that the first user to receive a knighthood should bear?

He was surprised by the words that were a mix of responsibility, worry, and sadness, but he could clearly see the warmth of her heart contained in those words.

In this situation, there was only one thought that came to Leeha’s mind.

“If you’re okay with me, I will help.”

“What?”

Shin Nara carefully raised her head. There were no tears, but the tip of her nose was red and Leeha looked at her crying face and said.

“I will help you if you don’t mind. If Nara-ssi believes in me… I can bring more reliable people than me.”

“You will? Really… Will you help me even though it’s a quest in which you don’t have anything to gain?”

“I will do it if it would stop Nara-ssi from crying.”

“What? What-”

“So don’t cry.”

Leeha reassured Shin Nara in a calm, slightly slow tone.

She knew that Leeha did not move just according to profit, but what did his words mean?.

‘Maybe Leeha-ssi……?’ A red blush appeared on Shin Nara’s face. Of course, Leeha did not have the same ‘meaning’ as Shin Nara thought. It was because he saw in her the image of his mother, a woman with a sense of responsibility and willingness to sacrifice herself……. Without knowing each other’s thoughts, they held each other for a while.

Leeha pressed the accept button that appeared in front of him. To gather people, he had to move fast.

(To be continued…)
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“So? Did you kiss?”

“K-k-k-kiss? What are you talking about?! Are you sure you heard me correctly?”

Leeha stepped back and shouted. Kijung smiled mischievously and approached Leeha.

“Ha, haha! Of course! That’s why I asked you, did you kiss Shin Nara?”

“D-Don’t say something that’s not even funny! We talked seriously for a while, so why would we kiss?”

“A woman who grieves and a man who comforts her! It’s a heaven-sent opportunity! Of course, you have to think about what is going on! Isn’t Tale-hyungnim curious too?”

“It is natural to worry about Fibiel’s future, but……. cough, it is said that matters of man and woman are more important than the future of the country……”

“T-Tale-nim, you’re like that too?”

Even the martial artist he trusted was saying something like that. Leeha wondered “Did I tell them what happened to Shin Nara for no reason?”.

“Kuhahah! Phew, anyway, alright, hyung. I understood everything you said. But you really didn’t just miss the chance, did you?”

Kijung gasped and laughed until he was out of breath before finally speaking. Leeha shook his head with a gloomy expression and brought up the situation again.

What kind of strange thing were they saying while talking about something so important?

“I didn’t pass on it. I accepted the quest and received a promise from Shin Nara. Regardless of the result, she said that she will help me enter the Royal Archives. I couldn’t do the quest because things got tangled up-”

“No, not that you fool! Did you pass the situation of hugging Shin Nara! You should have asked her number-”

“Hmm? What are you talking about again! Of course I passed on it! What should I have done?”

Kijung and Tale’s expressions hardened as Leeha shouted.

“Oh……. Even pumpkins come in vines.”

“Hmm. Even the marksman who shot the ruler of the Sentinel Mountains could not shoot a woman’s heart.”


“Tale hyung is right. What should have been done in such a situation? Did you say something about the Royal Archives? Hyung really is……”

Seeing the two people’s interaction, Leeha was filled with restlessness.

Where did their minds go while talking about the future of Fibiel’s royal family and the possibility of a continental war.

“Tale-nim, don’t be too enthusiastic. So Kijung, think about it carefully. It is safe to say that the quest has virtually no reward, and the penalty for failure would be too large.”

Leeha deliberately emphasized the downside of Shin Nara’s quest. Of course, Leeha had a reason for saying this, because those who want to take part in the quest hoping for a reward would have a hard time accepting the quest.

“What are you talking about, eong-ah. There’s something more important than that, right, Tale-hyungnim?”

Kijung knew that he was not the type to pursue small profits.

“Yes. Most importantly, it’s in the royal palace, and it’s a quest related to the king. If the word spreads, the reputation and recognition of our guild will sharply rise.”

“And if the recognition of the guild increases, loyalty will also increase, and perhaps guild master-……. we might be able to become as famous and strong as when Hyein hyung led us.”

Kijung was already a full-fledged guild master. Leeha saw a different side of his cousin.

“Well, and we can’t miss the opportunity to get to know Shin Nara-nim. Haha, master Kay and Tale of Byulcho will participate!”

“Okay!”

『Uninvited guests』 Number of participants(5/10)

“Are you going to gather the rest?”

“Yes. That’s right. Nara-ssi said that all the people she knew already rejected it.”

“Oh, is that so?……. But can you gather them all? It is said that she asked for a level 200 or higher or outsider-level experts.”

Kijung looked at Leeha with worried eyes, but Leeha smiled brightly.

“Who do you think I am? Please come to the main gate of the palace at 6am tomorrow. I’m going.”

Leeha used teleport after saying goodbye to Tale and Kijung. His next destination was obvious.

“Jachung-nim! Jachung-nim!”


Leeha went to Dale Castle. After passing through the inner gate, Leeha found Jachung walking through the training ground and waved his hand warmly. Of course, the face of the person who received his greeting was distorted for a moment.

“H-Ha Leeha-nim?! What are you here for?”

“I just came back, what kind of greeting is that?. Like someone who met a gangster, who came to steal from you……”

It was the same! Jachung couldn’t say it loudly, Leeha quickly approached.

“Are the sisters in the office?”

“Guild master-nim is here, but she is busy-”

“You absolutely won’t take a loss, so you should tell her quickly. It’s related to the Royal Palace, so you might roughly know it.”

“Hmm? ”

Jachung’s expression quickly became serious. Among the rumors circulating recently, there was only one thing related to the Royal Palace.

“Okay. Follow me.”

There was nothing to report on this matter. Jachung took the lead to the office.

The office without any decorations was filled with different piles of papers.

“Jachung! Where have you been? All of the payment requests in the morning have been completed-”

“Guild master-nim, Ha Leeha-nim is here.”

“-quick- huh? Who?”

Red hair stuck out on top of the paperwork. Ram Hwayeon found Leeha standing at the front door.

Her bangs were pulled through with a pin.

Contrary to her usual flirty appearance, she was dressed in a ‘work-only’ outfit.

“Ha-Ha Leeha! W-Why are you here all of a sudden- no, Jachung! How can you do this?!”

Her head disappeared behind the tower of papers again.


After all, she looked like that! It was a look that she didn’t show to her other guild members!

However, Leeha did not have time to admire(?) Ram Hwayeon.

“Waa……. What is this? What ……. Doesn’t our government work like this as well? You’re amazing, Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

There was no time to admire the murderous workload she was handling.

-Don’t look at it carelessly! Those are not only Dale Castle’s, but also Ram Long group’s documents!

“Aigoo, I saw you writing something…… don’t worry about it. What was it? Let’s talk face to face.”

-Not yet! Do not come! Wait!

Shortly after hearing a commotion behind the documents, Ram Hwayeon took a deep breath and appeared in her usual outfit.

It was a little frizzy and her red hair was still dripping, but her face seemed to be a little whiter than what Leeha just saw before.

“Huuu, huuu What? So suddenly- ah! Did you come to collect the settlement money?”

“Huh?”

“As of yesterday, the first settlement was over. I haven’t had the time to deposit the money yet, did you come to remind me on day 1?”

Ram Hwayeon quickly spewed out words. It was as if she was trying to erase what happened earlier from Leeha’s memory and not give him time to think.

“Ah…… no, it isn’t about that……. It would be better to give it now.”

However, he hadn’t even thought of that.

He didn’t even know that Dale Castle’s settlement day was yesterday, so he was grateful for Ram Hwayeon’s words.

‘Right. It’s been a month already.’

Leeha barely remembered his stake in Dale Castle. The value of this stake was not simply free admission to the dungeons. He received a portion of the income of Dale Castle.

“I will pay you a check. If you go to Dale Castle Bank, you can turn it into gold right away.”

Ram Hwayeon skillfully wrote down the amount, signed it, and handed the check to Leeha.

“Now! This is yours. 10% of this month’s net income.”

“This feels like receiving an unexpected birthday present. Thank you very much.”

He didn’t come to talk about it. Leeha smiled and took the check. And he tried to bring out Shin Nara’s task.

If only he didn’t see the amount written on the check.

“What is this?”

“Why? Is it strange? I have no reason to deceive you, but if you have doubts, I can show you the income statement.”

“N-no, this is 10%?”

Looking at Leeha’s expression, Ram Hwayeon could understand why he was surprised.

“Yes. That is 10% of the net income in the first month. The war with the Byulcho Alliance became an advertisement, so there were more visitors than expected. Well, I wasted some time finding the right tax rate and price, so we might have gotten a bit more……. Anyway, it should considerably decrease from next month onwards, so don’t expect too much.”

Leeha looked at Ram Hwayeon’s face as if to say ‘What’s wrong with this?’.

『581 gold has been acquired.』

“No matter how much I try……. If 581gold is only 10%……”

581 gold or about 70 million won was given as 10% of the monthly income.

‘This is crazy, then does that mean that her monthly income is about 700 million won? And that is the net profit after all the expenses!’

In addition, one had to think about it. That is a month in Middle Earth’s time. That means it is 6 days in the real world’s time! She said that it would decrease next month, but it was still shocking.

That’s the reason they fought with the Byulcho Alliance…. Leeha looked at Ram Hwayeon and Jachung alternately without even closing his mouth.

“Is this real? Won’t you say that you wrote the wrong amount, or forgot to put a decimal point later?”

“Hmp, don’t be surprised by that. If we are lucky enough, we can get paid more.”

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha with a sad expression. With eyes that wanted Leeha, more than just a simple check.

“Heuheu. With just that much? If you become a vice-guild master and become a member of Ram Long, it wouldn’t be that much-”

“S-shut up, Jachung! If you say something weird again, I will kill you!”

“Yes, yes, I understand, guild master-nim.”

Jachung bowed and groaned. Leeha also came to his senses.

“Where is Ram Hwajung? Call Ram Hwajung-ssi too.”

“What’s going on? Why does Ram Hwajung have a ‘ssi’ when you’re talking to me?”

“T-That, anyway- call her. It has something to do with the Royal Palace.”

Ram Hwayeon frowned for a moment but soon became serious at the words Royal Palace.

She clearly saw Jachung standing behind Leeha, nodding his head with a nuance saying, “Guild master-nim’s idea was right”.

“Okay. I will call her.”

And after a while, Ram Hwajung arrived at the office.

Ram Hwayeon and Jachung tilted their heads as they saw Leeha and Ram Hwajung’s red-hot faces. Still thinking about the ‘crystal ball’, Leeha and Ram Hwajung were embarrassed to see each other’s faces. It was quite embarrassing.

“Tell me.”

“C-cough. Please lend me your strenth.”

And Leeha brought up the story.

“……You want us to join such a dangerous thing?”

“It won’t harm Dale Castle, no, Hwahong. You can also get acquainted with the Royal Family. You can negotiate the tax rate of a province or city if you have a certain degree of intimacy, right? Most documents here are related to other cities, not Dale Castle……. Hwahong wouldn’t be satisfied with just Dale Castle, right?”

Leeha said as he glanced at a document. Ram Hwayeon quickly grabbed the document.

Does that mean he quickly scanned through the documents and found their weakness?

“Kek. As expected……. I like you.”

“What?”

(To be continued…)
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The ability to persuade the other party by guessing or exploiting their weakness with only a piece of information.

Leeha, who sat across the table, wasn’t the clumsy musketeer he used to be.

Seeing Leeha skillfully negotiate with three Hwahong members, Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Jachung, in front of him, the corner of Ram Hwayeon’s lips twitched.

One of the ‘main’ reasons why Hwahong wanted Leeha in the first place was because of his close relationship with Shin Nara. And using their relationship with Shin Nara and Leeha as a stepping stone to establishing a connection with Fibiel’s Royal Family!

Jachung knew about it but kept quiet.

Now, as Leeha had said, this situation was what Hwahong was looking forward to.

“You don’t need to know Nara. Don’t think of playing hard to get, Ram Hwayeon-ssi. In or Out. Just decide that.”

“Hmmm, as Leeha said, there’s definitely an advantage for Hwahong. But there are things to consider.”

Of course, it wasn’t Ram Hwayeon’s style to immediately bite the bait. Ram Hwayeon deliberately frowned and held her chin.

Even if both parties want to negotiate, they need to pretend in order to draw out a lot of things. It would have been possible if Ram Hwayeon was the only one present.

“In. Let’s go together, oppa.”

If it wasn’t for Ram Hwajung.

“Huh? Hwajung-ah?!”

“It’s what we wanted to do, unni.”

“Y-you! If you say that while negotiating-!”

You can’t show all the cards you have!

Ram Hwayeon was stunned, but Ram Hwajung did not want to have that kind of conversation with Leeha. The blue-haired girl jumped off the chair and ran towards Leeha.

“Invite me, oppa.”


“Heuheu, it’s what Hwahong ‘wanted to do’?”

Looking at Leeha’s bright smile, Ram Hwayeon slapped her forehead. After all, there was no longer room for negotiation. It would have been only a one-sided request.

“Anyway, I would be grateful if you could help me with ‘what I wanted to do’. Ah, the meeting will be tomorrow at 6am, so don’t be late.”

『Uninvited guests』 Number of participants(8/10)

Three members of Hwahong, Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Jachung, joined the quest. While promising not only themselves but also scrolls and potions.

“What is this fog……”

“I think this is part of the quest”

When Kijung complained, Tale answered.

“Is it to make it easier to sneak in?”

“Hmm. A lot has changed in Middle Earth’s weather since phase 2.”

Unlike usual, there was a thick fog near Fibiel Palace.

It was early in the morning and the sun had not yet risen. Most importantly, such a fog would be advantageous to those who illegally break into the royal palace.

“By the way, it’s going to be six soon, doesn’t it seem like we’re the only ones here? Did Leeha hyung get all the people?”

Kijung looked around, but in front of the main gate of the Royal Palace, there was nothing except the NPC guards.

“I am also concerned. There are still 9 people in the quest window……. I don’t think

he was able to get the last one-”

“You don’t have to worry about that. He said that they couldn’t meet, so he persuaded them through whisper.”

“Ah! S-Shin Nara-nim!”

After cutting off Tale’s words, Shin Nara walked out of the front door. Although they had already heard of it from Leeha, her emaciated appearance was still surprising for Tale and Kijung.

“Byulcho’s Master Kay and Tale, right?”


“Yes!”

Kijung replied nonchalantly.

“Thank you so much… for coming.”

“Don’t mention it. It is an honor to be with a true martial artist like Shin Nara-nim.”

Tale, a kendo practitioner, looked at the Olympic gold medalist in fencing with shining eyes. If it wasn’t for the quest, he might have asked her for a match.

“I heard you became a guild master, but I wasn’t able to congratulate you.”

“Hey, what do you mean by congratulate? It wasn’t like I did anything particularly good.”

Kijung waved his hands at Shin Nara’s greetings. These two were definitely chosen by Leeha. Their tone and action made Shin Nara feel reassured.

“It’s here, right Jachung?”

“I told you, this is the front gate, so it’s definitely here-”

“That’s right. There are three people in front.”

Three silhouettes of different sizes glimmered in the mist. Kijung opened his eyes and responded.

“Oh, they must be the others, who are they?”

“I somewhat know.”

“You know? Who?”

“If it’s Ha Leeha-kun……. probably……”

Step, step, the sound of footsteps became louder and louder. As they grasped each other’s silhouettes, some of their muscles twitched.

“Byulcho?!”

“Hwahong!?”

Ram Hwayeon and Kijung opened their eyes and looked at each other. Dale Castle’s war had come to an end, and it was no longer hostile.


However, they could still be called rivals!

“Surely! Are you the people Ha Leeha talked about?”

“T-That’s what I wanted to say! Why did Leeha hyung get Hwahong?”

Ram Hwayeon and Kijung turned to each other, but the others from Byulcho and Hwahong nodded as if they actually knew.

“It was predictable.”

“It’s because oppa’s contacts are limited.”

Tale and Ram Hwajung exchanged words.

“Haha, it’s a strength from my point of view. The two of the highest leveled guild in Fibiel Kingdom are here to help him. Ah, my greeting is late. Hwahong’s guild master, Ram Hwayeon, ice Wi- no, ice Princess, Ram Hwajung, and vice-guild master, Jachung. Right?”

Shin Nara, who almost blurted the nickname “Ice Witch” without realizing it, hurriedly changed her words. Ram Hwajung furrowed his brows for a moment, but that was all.

“It’s an honor to be here. I am Hwahong’s Jachung. If you need any help with Fibiel Kingdom’s domestic situation, feel free to ask. Hwahong is ready to help Shin Nara-nim with all that we have.”

Jachung showed the power of Hwahong by handing out business card-like notes.

From the very beginning, Hwahong had, to some extent, decided what to say and who would say it.

“Uh, Leeha hyung, anyway……. Without telling me. And why didn’t he come after getting everyone?”

“There. Someone is coming.”

While Kijung grumbled about having to be with Hwahong, another silhouette approached beyond the fog.

Saak- Saak- with a strange sound.

“Huh? Kikis, I’m late! There are still five more minutes, but you’re already here.”

“W-who-”

“Heek! Monster!”

The female users took two steps back. Even Kijung was surprised at the horrifying look of the person, no, lizardia who was smiling with his teeth exposed.

“You came with Ha Leeha-nim’s recommendation, right? I am Biyemi, I will be doing this quest with you.”

Everyone’s brains were fully activated when they heard Biyemi’s name. However, it was a nickname that they had never heard before.

There were only a few famous people among the Lizardia race users, so they were sure. That he was an unknown user who did not belong to either rankers or outsiders.

“Y-you are acquainted with Leeha hyung?”

Kijung asked cautiously. Trust and security was vital to this quest. But where did a Lizardia with a nonsensical name come from?

“Kikikis, of course. Byulcho is busy with nurturing new recruits these days, but if you’re already at that level, taking them to Pachola Jungle will help you level up faster. Sentinel mountains have too many competitors.”

“What?”

“Hwahong are targeting so many cities. I think it would be better to be a little more focused. No matter how you look at it, it would be hard to aim only at places related to dungeons. Ah! I am not trying to interfere with your domestic administration, think of it as my personal opinion. kikikis.”

“What? H-How did you……”

“Shin Nara-ssi must also prepare well. It would be hard for the people gathered here, but if it’s true that Petyr is the culprit, all of 『Midnight Circus』 will move. Kikis.”

“Biyemi-nim…… you say?”

Kijung, Ram Hwayeon, and Shin Nara all had round eyes.

What was the identity of this lizard that knew the circumstances of the guilds that required security, and even things that are related to the quest?

While everyone was speechless, a sound was heard over the fog. Along with the brisque footsteps, the voice everyone was waiting for spread softly.

“Everyone, don’t be too curious. Biyemi isn’t really an ordinary person. Well, just by looking at his appearance, he’s not human. What have you been up to……?”

Like a guitarist, Leeha who carried an elongated leather case walked over with a smile.

Leeha called Biyemi just in case, but he was pleasantly surprised, he was also satisfied “Kikis, you sound like a weird person, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Leeha hyung!”

“Ha Leeha, you!”

“Oppa.”

“C-call me one at a time! Why are you calling me different names?”

While Leeha was flustered by the call from different people, Shin Nara ran toward him.

“Leeha-ssi!”

Paak-!

And she hugged Leeha. It was like a surprise attack.

“Thank you, thank you so much……. For me……”

Leeha risked his life for her before. And this time, he is doing it again.

Profit and loss calculation aside, Leeha personally called and gathered the experts of the Fibiel Kingdom for a dangerous quest.

“Oh, t-that-”

The woman hugged first?! That alone was disconcerting.

On top of that, he saw Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung glaring at him and Shin Nara with killing intent, and Kijung next to them was saying “kiss”! with his mouth pouting….

“How long are you going to be like that? You didn’t call us just to show us that, did you? Besides, who is the last person? No one has come yet.”

“Ohh, r-right! That’s it! It’s time for that person to come!”

As Ram Hwayeon shouted, Leeha carefully got out of Shin Nara’s hug. And he checked the location of the last person.

“Oh? He’s near?”

“……I don’t see anyone.”

“No. He’s obviously here. On the wall?”

Not an approximate location, but an accurate location. As soon as Leeha raised his head, someone jumped off the wall.

Shin Nara’s eyes widened when she saw him.

“K…… Kidd?! Sleeping Kidd!”

“Let’s quickly go inside. I hate annoying things, but I hate procrastination even more.”

Kidd ignored Shin Nara, and walked in first, wearing his broad-rimmed hat. Among the crowd, Biyemi followed.

“Kikis, we won’t have much time to have an operation meeting. Because they are assassination experts. Let’s go, Shin Nara-ssi.”

『Uninvited guests』 Number of participants(10/10)

“Okay. Follow me. I will guide you to the Fibiel King’s palace. Kidd! Stop! Follow me!”

(To be continued…)
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When she saw Kidd, Shin Nara, who was emaciated, got energized. The person she didn’t want to lose to more than anyone else was Kidd. Shin Nara did not want to show any weakness in front of him.

“Thank God it worked out.”

Of course, it was the outcome that Leeha had hoped for.

After all 10 participants were filled out, those who had gathered walked into Fibiel’s Royal Palace.

It was not an exaggeration to say that these were the strongest people Leeha knew.

Although he didn’t know why Ram Hwayeon always provoked him.

People sat down in the large conference room of the Fibiel Royal Palace.

Byulcho and Biyemi sat on the left side while Hwahong and Kidd sat on the right side. On the top of the table was Shin Nara with Leeha beside her.

“I will tell you what I heard yesterday. What we have to do is-”

“Excuse me, wait a minute, Ha Leeha-nim? Where’s the last person?”

Jachung raised his hand and interrupted Leeha. As he said, there were only nine people in the conference room. Shin Nara’s friend had not come.

“Hmmm, Nara-ssi?”

“Ah, I called her just now. My friend was guarding the king’s bedroom, and since we’ve sent five Sacred Knights, it should be fine for my friend to be away for a while.”

“I see. Then once your friend comes, we’ll introduce ourselves to each other and proceed with the meeting.”

Leeha sat down. The meeting room was extremely quiet even though there were many people who were usually very friendly.

Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung gazed at Shin Nara while being wary of Byulcho, and Biyemi examined the faces and the items of everyone.

Tale showed curiosity towards Shin Nara and Biyemi and sneakily glanced around.

In addition to that atmosphere, Kidd laid down, not interested in what was currently happening…….


‘I thought we would be like the Avengers, but would we be able to do well?’

Leeha thought it was a good idea to bring Kidd to cheer Shin Nara up, but Leeha was worried about whether Kidd could fit in because of his personality.

How much trouble did he experience just to bring him here?

Leeha used a lot of underhanded tactics in order for Kidd to come, such as

“Did you forget that I saved you in Dale Castle?”, “Is the person who succeeded 『Rapid Fire』 such a cowardly person?”, “Are you so afraid of Shin Nara that you don’t even want to come?”.

‘Well, with the members we have, I can’t even imagine losing to anyone……”

As Leeha contemplated various things, the door to the conference room swung open.

“Who-”

There was no time to say ‘hey’.

While Leeha was lost in thought, everyone was in a state of tension, therefore, they were about to draw their weapon or cast their skills.

When everyone in the conference room reacted in an instant, Leeha wanted to applaud.

“W-Wait. Are you going to kill someone because they didn’t knock?”

“Phew, I told you to enter carefully! Say hello. These are the people Leeha-ssi gathered.”

The person who entered was a black-haired woman with her hair tied in a ponytail. More impressive than the headband was the white bow she held.

Kijung, Tale, and Jachung were startled, Ram Hwajung’s forehead twitched and Biyemi smiled.

Everyone recognized her white bow, except for Kidd who looked uninterested and Leeha, who didn’t know many people.

“Did you say you were Shin Nara-nim’s friend?”

“No, no, I understand. I could tell where the two of them met. Maybe it was in Taereung.”

“Oh, birds of a feather flock together. Indeed, the friend of the 6th rank is also a ranker.”

She politely raised her bow in front of her and bowed her head.


“Nice to meet you, everyone. I am Bobae.”

Number 10 in the ranking, the only ranged-dealer among the top 10. The ‘Archer’ Bobae smiled innocently.

6th Rank – Fencer: Shin Nara, olympic gold medalist in fencing, nationality – Korea

9th Rank – Ice Mage: Ram Hwajung, Middle Earth’s Genius / Youngest Daughter of Hong Kong’s Largest Conglomerate, nationality – Hong Kong

10th Rank – Archer: Bobae, 1st place at World Archery Championship 3 times in a row, nationality – Korea

Kijung couldn’t keep his mouth shut as he saw the three of them gathered in a single location, something that had never happened in Middle Earth’s history.

There were times when three of the top 10 rankers appeared in one place during the war. However, this was different from back then.

‘They’re all female rankers! Three out of four female rankers in the top 10 are in one place! Wow-!’

If you add Ram Hwayeon, who did not lose in terms of beauty, it was truly awe-inspiring! It could be said that it was the bloodiest flower garden on Middle Earth!

To relieve the awkward atmosphere, Shin Nara opened her mouth first.

“As expected of Tale-nim, you are sharp. Haha, that’s right, I first met Bobae at the Korean National Training Center.”

“Uh-huh, you said you didn’t want to play Middle Earth together~ You said you didn’t want to play, but before I knew it, your ranking was higher than mine.”

Shin Nara and Bobae laughed together. Bobae, who shook everyone’s hand, also reached out to Leeha.

“Ha Leeha-ssi?”

“Yes, I am Ha Leeha.”

“I have heard a lot about you from Nara.”

Bobae brought her face toward Leeha and whispered in his ear.

“What? What are you talking about-”

“Ah, ahhh! Bobae, you!! Come here and sit down quickly!”

Shin Nara quickly got up and separated the two of them.


In a friendly atmosphere that was absurd compared to the reason for their gathering, veins appeared on Ram Hwayeon’s forehead. When Jachung trembled as if to shout at Shin Nara, someone else opened their mouth.

“What a leisurely quest.”

Kidd laid down on the chair with his feet on the table. His voice came out slowly with his hat covering his face.

“Kikis, right. I am well aware of your great prestige and skill, but it will still be difficult. We would not be fighting 『Midnight Circus』 10 vs 10. We need to stop the assassination. It’s not a fight against them. We do not even have the time to be surprised..”

It was followed by Biyemi. Ram Hwayeon made a face like it was saying, ‘You’re good.’

“Ah, that’s right. Everyone is here to help. Sorry. I was so excited that I was not able to express my gratitude.”

After Shin Nara apologized and bowed, the atmosphere became heavy again.

She only apologized like that once.

When she raised her head, she was once again the 6th rank of the top 10 rankings, and gave the feeling of being the first user to be knighted in Middle Earth.

“Leeha-ssi has heard it briefly, but I will explain everything I know. Please listen.”

Shin Nara quickly and concisely summarized the details of the quest.

The suspected assassin was Petyr, who was ranked 5th, and there were guards and mages to protect the Royal Palace, but it wasn’t a situation where it could not be entrusted to the NPCs for protection.

The failure condition was the death of the king.

In other words, the 10 people who were gathered here will have to work in shifts for the next 46 days.

Whether it was day or night.

“And Biyemi— -ssi, right? As you said earlier, there’s a high possibility that Petyr will not move alone. He has fanatic-like followers…”

“It is not a possibility, it’s inevitable. Kikis, he is more than a cult leader of 『Midnight Circus』! Dozens of experts that are level 150 or higher will be attacking the Royal Palace. If we fought head-on, the people gathered here would be able to win, but-”

“If we get caught in a surprise attack, we could die instantly.”

Tale sighed.

Obviously, the assassins’ attacks were unpredictable. The types of items they used were diverse, it was impossible to predict their skills.

“Yes. In extreme terms, they might even have transformed into the chairs that we are sitting on. Kiki. First of all, I have compiled the types of transformations and camouflages that assassins can use, so you can refer to this.”

Biyemi handed out papers to everyone. There was only one person who was not astounded by the documents.

It was unavoidable. There was only one thought in everyone’s minds.

‘How did he know this?’

Unless they were an assassin, they would not know this information.

Even if one searched the internet, they would not be able to find such an organized document for each job. Although the signature skills of some jobs were listed randomly, the data that Biyemi gave them was not that much.

“Phew. As expected of Biyemi-nim. How did you know, won’t you tell me?”

“Yeah, of course, it’s in the in-”

“-ternet. All right. I won’t ask. So hide it well.”

Biyemi smiled brightly at Leeha’s grumbling. Seeing the lizard’s well-aligned teeth, Ram Hwajung trembled.

“But if they could transform into a chair or table-Isn’t it a bit of a scam? Doesn’t that mean that if they waited like this, and the assassination target came, they could release their transformation and stab them?”

Leeha clicked his tongue as he looked at the list.

“Strictly speaking, they would not transform into a chair or a table. They would only decorate their body in the shape of a chair or table and put it in. Dogs also have their own hardships. It is said that they are supposed to do weird yoga poses like mages focused on casting, would you be able to call that easy? Kis Kis. If they lose their concentration even for a moment, their transformation would be released.”

Biyemi giggled as if it was something funny, but it was still surprising for others to hear.

‘So, how did he know the mechanics of the assassin’s skills?! That person- no, what the hell is that Lizardia?’

Not only Kijung, but also Shin Nara, Bobae, and Tale managed to suppress their ticklish mouths.

“Hmm, that must be annoying. It’s not like we could use detection skills for 24 hours a day.”

Leeha noticed a strange thing while checking the list.

‘Hmm? Oh?’

But it disappeared. Ram Hwayeon sat in front of Leeha. There was something odd hanging from one of the legs of the chair she was sitting on.

‘What? Did I see it wrong? Something like a finger on the chair-’

He suddenly got goosebumps.

What did Biyemi just say? Leeha swallowed his saliva and slowly opened the leather case.

“Leeha-ssi? What are you doing? By the way, did you change your weapon?”

“Haha, yes. I’m thinking of cleaning it up a bit.”

Then slowly, at a very low speed, he combined the magazine. An unfamiliar sound of clicking echoed in the quiet meeting room, but no one thought it strange.

It was not a musket but a modern rifle. However, non-experts wouldn’t be able to tell the difference without looking closely.

‘Huu, huu. If-if I am right……’

Leeha caught his breath and leaned against the wall of the conference room.

“What…… are you doing?”

“Phew……. Haa……”

“Ha Leeha?”

Leeha did not answer Ram Hwayeon’s question.

The people in the conference room tilted their heads at Leeha’s abnormal behavior. However, Leeha could not explain the situation. If he opened his mouth now, everything would be over.

‘I’d rather not! ……Mana clairvoyance!’

Shiing- In an instant, people in the conference room began to show up in detail.

According to Shin Nara’s words, only those involved in the quest should be in this conference room. In other words, there should only be 10 people that could be seen by mana clairvoyance.

However, what appeared in Leeha’s view right now?

Leeha bit his lips and slowly lowered his gun.

“W-wait, why are you aiming at me?”

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi, do you believe me?”

“I-I do believe- wait! What are you going to do?!”

Heup.

Leeha breatherd in-

And suddenlu shouted.

“Everyone stand up! We’ve already been infiltrated! Assassins!!!”

Bang-!

Leeha pulled the trigger without hesitation. The target was the chair that Ram Hwayeon was sitting on, to be more precise, the assassin that had turned into a chair.

(To be continued…)
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“Aaagh-!”

Ram Hwayeon’s body flew into the air.

The assassin, who had transformed into a chair, released his transformation and lifted his body.

The action of the assassin, who faintly noticed that he was caught, was slightly faster than Leeha’s.

If Leeha’s musket had been a normal musket, the assassin would have been able to escape safely, even if it was the hummingbird.

“Cough……”

However, not now.

It was not from a musket that shot iron bullets, but from 『Black Bass』 that shot a bullet the length of a woman’s palm.

It was a bullet that had the same caliber as an anti-ship sniper rifle which had the destructive power to tear apart a human body by simply grazing it.

Just like how the ankle of the assassin disappeared.

“Unni! Ice-”

“Guild master-nim!You!”

Ram Hwajung and Jachung raised their weapons.

Seething with anger, they had the momentum to freeze and destroy the assassin at any moment!

Leeha quickly spoke.

“Don’t kill him!We need to capture him!”

“-Spear.”

Swiiik, however, Ram Hwajung’s casting was too fast.


A spear made of ice had already pierced the assassin’s chest.

“Damn it, check his face-”

He approached the assassin who had already turned dark.

He wanted to see the face of the guy wearing a mask, however, Leeha was not able to.

He wondered if he could find any clues….

“This……”

The guy in the mask was shattered by the ice spear in an instant.

“H-he was about to die anyway-”

Seeing Leeha’s hardened expression, Ram Hwajung quickly spoke.

She knew.

Leeha’s bullet blew off the assassin’s ankle, but the damage wasn’t only at that level.

Even if she hadn’t used magic, the assassin would have died.

Even so, the thought of her sister being in danger made her angry which resulted in her casting magic…….

So the assassin disappeared faster.

“.. So..rry oppa.”

Ram Hwajung, spoke in a quiet voice and provided no further explanation upon seeing Leeha’s face harden.

She wondered if her Leeha oppa would get angry.

He might even scream.

Middle Earth’s genius, nicknamed Ice Witch, was still close to being a ‘child’.

Seeing the tense atmosphere between Leeha and Hwajung, Jachung tried to speak, however, Leeha’s hand was already raised.


“H-Ha Leeha-nim-!”

Will he slap Ram Hwajung?!

Of course not.

Isn’t it her job to prevent her unni from dying?

Ram Hwajung, who had her head bowed, flinched the moment Leeha’s hand touched her head, but her face turned red as his hand softened.

“It’s okay. It can’t be helped. I was able to check one thing.”

Leeha smiled and stroked her hair.

He thought of it as experimenting with the additional content that appeared in the quest window.

『Intimacy with Fibiel’s Royal Family increased by 5%.』

“Ah, what is it, Jachung-nim?”

“Ah, no- nothing. By the way, what-?”

“It’s a notification window. The intimacy increased by 5%.”

In the quest description, it said that the intimacy with the royal family will increase whenever an assassin was killed or captured.

Leeha told them the answer, but Jachung and the others’ faces were clueless.

“Oh?It didn’t show up for you?”

“……It seems that it will only appear for the person who killed the assassin.”

“Ah, then?!”

Then Leeha realized that the person who made the mistake of killing the assassin was him.

Leeha stopped stroking Ram Hwajung’s hair.

He was the one who made the mistake but tried to pass it on to Ram Hwajung!


There was no way for him to hide his embarrassment.

“Did such a notification pop up?”

“Oh…….”

Haha, that’s right.

Why did it only show up for me?

I-it’s as expected.

“I didn’t know he was hiding in here.”

Leeha, who was embarrassed, quickly changed the subject.

The assassin hiding in the conference hall was surprising, and the short period of finding and killing him was surprising, but the most surprising thing was that they were preparing for battle.

Leeha suddenly realized the weight of the quest and the skills of those involved.

“Kikis, I told you. We shouldn’t underestimate 『Midnight Circus』. sAnd speaking about them already infiltrating……. Did you know?”

Biyemi glanced at Shin Nara.

While everyone was prepared for battle, the person with the most shocked face correctly understood Biyemi’s words.

“The royal mages……. Does that mean the trap was broken? Not even by Petyr, but by just one of the normal guild members?”

Shin Nara’s face turned pale.

Leeha also knew about the CCTV and the security system in the royal palace.

The gray corpse in front of them now meant that the defenses had become useless.

“Nara, what does that mean? Are you saying we shouldn’t trust NPCs in the future? It wasn’t like that until yesterday!”

“Maybe it’s because of the quest requirements.”

It might not have been that the NPCs were negligent of their duties, as Leeha-kun went around and met the quest’s condition……

Tale responded to the flustered Bobae.

Shin Nara remained quiet.

“I think Tale-hyungnim is right. It’s also in the quest description. It says that they can’t trust each other, or that they have to protect themselves with their own strength. Now that all 10 of us are here, it is better to not think of them as the same NPCs as yesterday.”

Kijung agreed and Biyemi, who was listening, quietly nodded his head.

In other words, it was not an exaggeration to say that the guards and royal mages are no longer present.

Besides, other assassins might have already infiltrated the royal palace!

Shin Nara, who listened to other people’s opinions, tried to run out of the conference room.

Impatience was evident in her expression.

“Then what should we do? We are, no, the king!If Petyr already came-”

“Nara-ssi.”

“Yes?”

“It’s not good to rush at times like this. Calm down.”

Leeha held onto Nara and looked at her.

He knew very well that doing anything while in that state could end horribly.

“Take a deep breath!

Huuu-!”

“Huuu.

-” “Haaa-.”

“Haaa…”

Nara’s breath was inhaled by Leeha.

Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Bobae looked at it with different emotions.

“Have you calmed down?”

“……Yes. Sorry. These days, just thinking about it drives me crazy.”

As Shin Nara calmed down, the conference room became quiet, and Biyemi spoke again.

“Kikis, anyone would be like that. Being the king’s escort is a crazy quest. Anyway, to stop Petyr and the 『Midnight Circus』, it would be best to be with the king 24 hours a day……. We won’t be able to get into the king’s bedroom, can we?”

“That’s right, Biyemi-nim. Even if we escort the king into his office, I am the only one who could stand next to him. Most importantly, even I can’t enter the bedroom.”

Shin Nara was also a knight.

In other words, they would not be able to get into the king’s bedroom based on the rumors, that even the guards and the royal mages did not believe.

“Cough, it’s difficult. So what should we do? Do we need to take turns to stand guard?”

Kijung held his chin.

It wasn’t a complete solution.

In the end, Kijung’s suggestion was the best, but….

Everyone was lost in their own thoughts.

All of them were people who had goals when it came to hunting, dungeon raids, and raids.

But this time, they were in a defensive position.

What the hell were they supposed to do?

It was not easy for people like Tale, a martial artist, or Bobae, a former archery player, to come up with an answer.

Except for one person.

“Jachung-nim.”

“Yes.”

In the quiet meeting room, Leeha opened his mouth.

“I need some supplies from Hwahong. For everyone. And Nara-ssi, I want you to give me a map of the Royal Palace and the routes of NPCs currently on patrol. Biyemi-nim, tell me everything you know about the members of the guild called 『Midnight Circus』.”

“What are you going to do…?”

The head of the former soldier spun endlessly.

No, he expected something like this in the first place.

Wasn’t it the reason why he gathered the people like this?.

“If we can’t trust the NPCs, we have to protect the castle. Everyone, please listen.”

**********************************

-Is the patrol team okay?

-Jachung-nim talks to the NPCs a lot, so it’s a little slow, but…. There’s nothing special.

-All right.

-Please continue working hard, Tale-nim.

-Always watch out for traps.

Leeha stuck his head out through the window of the tallest tower in the Central Palace and examined Tale and Jachung as they patrolled the ground.

He monitored what was happening using the Eagle’s Eye skill and the 444m dedicated scope attached to the Hummingbird pistol.

Leeha was extremely alert in monitoring the entire palace’s garden, and the south side, the main entrance to the royal palace.

“Bobae-ssi, how is everything on your side?”

“Yes. The wall I am looking at is the closest to the Central Palace, so I shouldn’t neglect it. I’m watching while using scrolls and my detection skills.”

Besides him, Bobae watched over the entire northern wall.

All sorts of scrolls had been added to the eyes of the top 10 world-ranked archer.

If she only needed to look at one side without paying attention to other things, she would not miss a single ant.

“Okay, this one is over, and the next……”

Leeha looked at the coarsely drawn map of the royal palace and contacted the other team.

It was rather surprising that Shin Nara was not able to get a perfectly drawn map of the royal palace.

-Western wall, is everything good?

-Of course!…

-Are you doing well, Ha Leeha! Aren’t you flirting with the girl next to you, Bobae or something?!

-What are you talking about……. Bobae-ssi is very vigilant right now. We don’t even have time to talk.

-Bobae-ssi? You’re already calling her like that?

Ram Hwayeon’s voice was deafening-!

Leeha’s head rang.

From the moment the group formed the boundary, she was like, “Why are they together”.

Leeha could not understand why the red-haired woman was like that.

‘She didn’t speak much at first, but became very hysterical.’

However, he could not do anything because they needed to check for irregularities every hour.

Leeha held his ringing head and whispered again.

– What do you mean already? Anyway, I wish you all the best. According to Nara-ssi, the western wall was originally a place with a small number of traps. That’s why I put Ram Hwajung there so that she could build a boundary system- – What!? Don’t you believe in Hwajung?

-Phew, I believe, I believe! Of course, I believe Ram Hwajung-ssi. By the way, Ram Hwayeon you-

-What?! What about me?! Hmp, I just didn’t get past level 200, but I am pretty much an outsider?! Ram Hwayeon, out-!

She shouted.

Leeha secretly sighed and continued.

-I’m still worried. Ram Hwayeon, I’m afraid you will get hurt.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Leeha saying some trap words that could make other people misunderstand.

First, Shin Nara, now, Ram Hwayeon. Sheesh.
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Not only was it the most dangerous position, but it was also disadvantageous in terms of her job. She was expected to become an outsider, but her skills had not yet been verified. In other words, in Leeha’s view, Ram Hwayeon could be instantly killed by an assassin.

It was natural for Leeha to be worried.

After hearing Leeha’s words, Ram Hwayeon did not say anything. Leeha, who expected her to make a fuss about him ignoring her again, tilted his head.

-Are you listening?

-……Y-Yes. I’m listening. I understand. I’ll be careful.

The reply was an extremely modest answer. Ram Hwayeon’s slightly trembling voice quietly echoed in Leeha’s head.

-That’s good to hear. Okay, do your best.

Did she feel better all of a sudden? Leeha thought that Ram Hwayeon’s personality was unpredictable, and whispered towards the border of the eastern wall. No, he was about to.

If only he didn’t receive a knife-like whisper on time.

-East-west-

-Eastern wall, perimeter, clear.

-Spe-

-There’s nothing special. There are 12 detect scrolls remaining. Looks like I have to resupply tomorrow.

-You’re so thorough. Okay. I will contact Jachung-nim.

-Copy that.

-Ah, what about Biyemi? Are you okay with him?

He did not get a reply from Kidd. Leeha was worried for a while, but he was sure that nothing would happen.

‘It’s better to focus on the wall without saying a word. Biyemi and Kidd were both in the 1st and 2nd place for strange conversation methods.


It was a wonder whether a conversation could happen if the two of them talked for a while.

Leeha whispered to the last team.

-Kijung-ah, what’s the situation?

-I-I’m nervous, hyung. It’s the first time I will see the king. Did you see, hyung? When I entered the door earlier, wow- the NPCs were extremely solemn…….

– I understand. Don’t get excited. Tell me if there’s anything special. And why are you nervous? Nara-ssi will tell you everything anyway.

The two people who would directly guard the king were Kijung and Shin Nara.

Hearing Kijung’s trembling voice, Leeha laughed softly.

‘Anyway, nothing big has happened yet.’

Leeha drew the last check mark on the map.

All the teams consisted of two or more people, so that they could be prepared for any emergencies, and they had secured a position to monitor both the inside and the outside of the fortress walls in the east, west, north, and south.

And Leeha placed the tanks Templar Kijung and Shin Nara near the king in case they missed anything.

It was the best choice to the extent that everyone present, including Kidd, admired it.

-Nothing special- no, wait a minute. Someone has come.

-Who?

-Shin Nara is greeting him. Reddish-Brown clothes. Robe? A magician? It’s a very old NPC. The name-

Kijung relayed the situation with Shin Nara in real time. Leeha paid attention to the front for a moment, and then concentrated on the whisper again.

-Who is it?

-……Lotzac. The chief royal mage.

“-So I would like to suggest strengthening the traps. My colleagues and I have discovered an intruder, but if the trap had been pierced once, there’s a possibility that it will be pierced again at any time.”

“……Dame Shin Nara is saying this. What do you think, lotzac?” asked the King of Fibiel. The eyes of the royal officials who lined up in the palace were focused on one side.


“I don’t understand, your grace. It is impossible for an individual to break through the magician’s boundary magic. If a dragon didn’t invade, it wouldn’t be possible.”

The old sorcerer, dressed in a reddish-Brown robe, bowed his head politely. The king listened to his answer, as he muttered, and stroked his beard.

Shin Nara, who was in the lined-up group, stared at the lot that was lined up on the other side.

“That’s nonsense! We found them and killed them! It’s irresponsible for Lotzac to say such a thing!”

“I really want to ask. What is the purpose of confusing the royal palace with a message that has no basis and even a horrific content…. Even an assassin that broke through the trap. You say you killed him, but you can’t reveal the body? Heh, I have no choice but to be suspicious of Dame Shin Nara.”

“W-who are you suspicious of! If you are so confident, let’s open the records using the spirits!” Shin Nara strengthened her voice, with her face shaking as Lotzac had a skeptical expression.

“Of course, you can make it public at any time as long as you have the order. However, I’m only thinking of the safety of His Majesty. We have no obligation to show Dame Shin Nara the records. Even if I have the obligation, I don’t know what to do-”

“Lotzac!”

Bang-!

“What safety are you both screaming about!”

As the tone of Shin Nara rose further, the person standing next to the king stamped his feet. They were someone who had different duties from those who were lined up before the king, and they could officially carry weapons at any place in King Fibiel’s palace.

“I-I’m sorry, your majesty.”

“This, I can’t stand her youthful spirit. I’m sorry for causing a scene.”

Upon hearing the shout of the guard commander, Shin Nara and Rotzak bowed their heads to the king. The king looked at the two of them, but still trembled and stroked his beard.

“Dame Shin Nara, please be careful with your words and actions. I can’t say anything about you carrying the weapon that His Majesty has given you! What’s the point of making a fuss when the Sacred Knights, not the guards, roam around the royal palace?”

“However, Guard Captain-”

“Stop! Besides being a member of the Sacred Knights, you also have the title of a Dame. Even if you are from a foreign land, and do not know the etiquette of Fibiel, it would be wrong to criticize Duke Lotzac, the leader of the Royal Mages. To say that you doubt his loyalty……. If I was Duke Lotzac, I would also be angry.”

The commander shouted at both Shin Nara and Lotzac, but his subtle tone was aimed at one target. Sacred Knights to be exact.

The will of the Guard Captain for them to take a step back and leave the royal palace was contained.

“Phew, okay. Dame Shin Nara’s report was good. Let’s finish this matter first. Rotzak, make sure to be vigilant in the future.”


“Yes, your majesty.”

Hearing the king’s words, lotzac bowed with respect. And he carefully added a word.

“Ah, there’s something I want to tell Dame Shin Nara.”

“What is it?”

Shin Nara growled.

“You said the magician’s trap is suspicious. Then why not try it yourself?”

“What?”

“As a member of the royal mages, I don’t really want to recommend it, but……” Lotzac shrugged his shoulders, and Shin Nara’s body trembled at the sight. She wanted to know what would happen if she put her magic sword under his chin, but she could not go any further. Not only the guard captain but also the king were watching each and every move of Shin Nara.

‘Wow, is this a fight with NPCs……? Aren’t they stronger than most people?’

And Kijung who stood at the farthest spot from the king, at the very end of the officials lined up in the palace, was watching him.

It was an argument that considered logic, laws, manner, status, and fame.

After becoming a guild master of Byulcho, it was necessary to build relationships with other guild masters.

Among them, there were those related to common interests, and there were those that had developed from minor disputes between guild members in hunting grounds. I thought I had gotten used to it after going through a lot of things, but….

‘It was just children playing. It’s like a political situation in the real world. Especially that old man…” Kijung shook his head as he looked at Lotzac. A high-level skill that provoked the opponent while taking the appropriate action for one’s interest at the same time!

It was as if he had seen a side of the faction fight that could only be seen in movies or dramas.

Kijung hurriedly told Leeha the situation.

‘It was a situation about being confident about traps.’

Leeha frowned at the tower in the Central Palace. The locations of the traps were roughly marked on the map that Shin Nara gave them.

‘He is provoking her to try the traps herself? No, is it a trap?’

It was a provocation to make it clear that the traps worked properly, and at the same time cause the annoying ‘Shin Nara crew’ to die.

And there was one thing he could think of. How to operate the trap.

‘It means that it is possible to turn the trap on or off at a specific time or location, or they can set the trap to not react to specific people. Anyway, we can’t trust Lotzac. We should be careful, we can not trust him to stop the assassins from breaking in.’

Others wouldn’t have ever thought this far.

However, Leeha knew another piece of information they did not know.

Because he saw. Because in the records related to the second Human-Demon War, I clearly saw it written to be careful of Lotzac.

‘He is the one who kept the Three Musketeers’ surrender to the Demon King a secret. I don’t know why, but it must be something he’s hiding. I think it’s supposed to be a black growth inside his body. So what is the situation now? Was he openly hostile to Shin Nara and persuaded the commander of the guard? If Lotzac had planned that……

He sounds like the culprit. He is the main instigator of the king’s assassination.

However, it was only Leeha’s conjecture. A conjecture that started from the assumption that ‘Lotzac is a suspicious person’. In reality, there was no evidence.

If there was evidence, Nara-ssi would have turned it over it already.’

According to Kijung, Shin Nara was getting beat up with words by the high-ranking NPC’s.

What could be the reason as to why she was putting up with it, with her brash personality? Because there was no evidence.

‘The evidence is also vague. The assassination suspect has been confirmed to be Petyr. That means-’

The NPC of Fibiel’s Royal Palace, the Chief Royal Mage Lotzac commissioned the user, Petyr. It was almost impossible to find anything that could be called evidence in that situation.

“Hmmm……”

“What makes you think that?”

“Waah? Bobae-ssi?”

“Your eyelashes are long.”

Beside him, Bobae was looking at his face. Her face was so close that Leeha got startled.

“W-what are you doing? Hurry and stand up.”

“Yes, yes. By the way, it’s already been ten hours. The sun went down a while ago, and I’m bored because I am only looking at the air. It’s rather fun to watch the NPCs passing by the king’s office. I’m going to die if I only look at those kinds of scenery.”

Bobae smiled brightly, stretched out, and headed to the other window. The sight she had been looking at all day today appeared without a single change.

“Still, you have to be patient until today. From tomorrow onwards, Bobae-ssi will be doing other jobs.”

The most important thing to watch out for was boredom and familiarity.

If one kept looking at the scenery just now, it was rather difficult to find anything different. Even those who have been on guard in the military can hardly stand on duty for 10 hours straight

Not to mention experts who were looked up to by others in Middle Earth, who were only civilians in real life.

“Something different? What?”

“I asked Nara-ssi for something else. To ask Lotzac to use large-scale magic to search the inside of the royal palace on a large scale. But it doesn’t seem to have worked, so we’ll have to find them ourselves. No, to be precise, Bobae-ssi will.”

(To be continued…)
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An assassin had already come and was hiding. There couldn’t only be one. Leeha focused on surveilling those who entered, but it was not limited to that. Before searching inside, they had to be strictly vigilant inside and outside of the palace.

‘No one has crossed the wall or escaped in any other way. Space movement and scrolls were also not possible. Because there was a possibility that there may be a secret passage or crypt under the fortress wall, he had asked Jachung and Tale thoroughly. However, they said that there was nothing special yet……. In other words, there were an unknown number of assassins who were able to stay inside without getting out.’

It could be said that they already knew about their colleague who was discovered and killed. What was the surest way to get out of such a situation?

‘Logging out.’

He remembered Biyemi’s words.

It was possible to log out for a day or so in Middle Earth.

However, he said that they could not log out often if they wanted to be thorough in their transformation and disguise.

They wouldn’t know what their surroundings would be like when they logged back in, but it would be too risky to enter Middle Earth while the transformation was released.

In the end, it would be a battle of patience.

“I will be walking around?”

“Yes. If you find an assassin, please use a restraint scroll to capture them if possible.”

“Okay. Just sitting still doesn’t fit my personality. Ah, I have a question for you.”

She was a long-ranged dealer, but she’s not weak to close-range either.

She was able to avoid an assassin’s surprise attack with her agility. If it were her, she would be able to deal with all the assassins except for Petyr. Leeha nodded as he thought about his plans and Petyr’s psychology.

“Yes, what is it?”

“Does Leeha-ssi have a girlfriend”

“What?”

It was as if he could hear a clicking noise in his head. It felt like everything that he had thought about Petyr until now was vaporized.


“Girlfriend? Why all of a sudden?”

“Oh my, why? Because I’m curious. What? Do you have a girlfriend? So you haven’t even dated Nara yet?”

“No- what do you mean? Who are you doing this with?”

What did she mean?

Their backs were turned against each other and watched in opposite directions Leeha managed to prevent his body from turning toward Bobae without realizing it.

“Really? Don’t you have a girlfriend? Okay. I’ll tell her later.”

“What- What are you talking about Bobae-ssi? Who will you tell?”

“Who? Nara, of course.”

“Shin Nara-ssi?”

“Then who else would it be? Haha.”

Bobae sighed and let out a laugh. Leeha’s mind went black for a moment.

He looked ahead at the inner gate used to enter the palace, but nothing caught his eyes. His heart skipped a beat.

Why would she tell Shin Nara that he had no girlfriend?

“No way……”

“What?”

“N-nothing. Nothing at all.”

He wanted to ask Bobae, whether Shin Nara had a crush on him. However, he didn’t have the courage to ask.

‘That’s nonsense. What did Nara-ssi say about me? No, we didn’t talk much.’

Wasn’t it necessary to have a ‘seed’ for a bud to sprout and a stem to grow?

However, Leeha didn’t think that he and Shin Nara had such a thing.


‘No way, what am I thinking?’

However, his heart rate beat faster. Flutter, flutter, hope appeared in his heart.

Another day passed like that. Several days went by peacefully and there was no movement from Petyr or Midnight Circus.

*****

“It’s a lot easier than expected.”

“At this age, continuous access is a bit tiring, but…. I have to do it too.”

Tale and Jachung looked back at the results of the past few days.

The Ram Hwayeon-Ram Hwajung group and Biyemi-Kidd group took turns guarding the east and west walls every day, and Jachung and Tale also conducted a thorough investigation of the area designated by Leeha, so the scope of their search changed every day.

Bobae prioritized finding the assassins who had broken into the palace but to no avail.

In other words, until today, after five full days in Middle Earth, the palace was peaceful.

‘Right, it’s only a day in the outside world. The assassins didn’t log in for a day.’

Leeha looked at the faces of the people gathered in the conference room. The fatigue that continuous connection gave was something he already knew.

Besides, it was neither hunting nor war, it was a boring ‘surveillance’.

Did any of them look tired, or disconcerted?

‘No……. Indeed, experts are experts.’

Although fatigue had piled up, the fact that there was no need to ease the tension made Leeha happy.

However, it would be inefficient to push it further here. When they needed to rest, they had to rest.

“Because of the first assassin we found, we had a lot of trouble working. Now we will work in shifts.”

“How are we going to do the shifts?”

“Oh, that-”


Leeha was perplexed by Shin Nara’s question. To be precise, it was not because of the question, but because Shin Nara looked at Leeha’s eyes. Her eyes were twinkling despite the fact that she was getting more and more tired as she endured alone until Leeha gathered his colleagues.

‘Bobae-ssi was only talking nonsense.’

On that day, after hearing the strange story in the Central Palace’s tower, he had a hard time looking at Shin Nara properly during meetings these past few days.

Seeing Leeha’s figure, Kijung smiled widely, and Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung frowned.

“Speak quickly, we should go to sleep as well.”

“Oh, okay. First, it would make sense to rotate every two days in Middle Earth time. It takes about 10 hours in real life. I think you must have been prepared from the moment you accepted this quest, but we don’t have much time to spare. Even if we eat just a spoonful of rice in the real world, hours pass by here.”

“If we have 10 hours of freedom…. We would only be able to eat a piece of bread and log in as soon as we wake up.”

Jachung let out a sigh. It was too harsh for someone whose age had passed his prime.

“Hang in there, Jachung-nim. Sometimes fasting is one way to boost your metabolism.”

“That- That would be possible for Tale-nim, who only practiced kumdo all his life, but it is quite hard for an office worker.”

“Now, now, don’t cry. I will prepare a healthy meal for you.”

The two middle-aged men became closer after surveilling together.

Should it be called funny, or should it be called inspiring? Leeha also looked at them and smiled.

“It may be hard, but it is only for 42 days. It would only take 9 days in the real world. Me, Nara-ssi. Ram Hwajung-ssi, Tale-nim, and Biyemi-nim will work as the first team. Those who have not been called can log out and rest-”

“Wait! Why Hwajung? What about me!”

“-well. Huh? Ram Hwayeon?”

“Why? Is there a reason not to?”

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha and Nara alternately.

The first and second team assignments outlined by Leeha were designed for combat balance and flexible response in case of emergencies. Although there’s a big difference in power between Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung, he and Shin Nara were there. That should be sufficient.

“Hmm……. Well, nothing will change much. Rather group 2 would be a little more relaxed. Aren’t you being considerate of your younger sister, Ram Hwayeon-ssi?”

“Hehe. Of course. Our Hwajung will need to go to bed soon.”

Ram Hwayeon hugged Ram Hwajung in her arms. However, her younger sister did not seem to be happy with her older sister.

“……Me too, with oppa-”

“Huh?”

“No…”

She wanted to say something, but Ram Hwajung shook her head.

Jachung recognized her gloomy expression but the opinion of the ‘eldest daughter’ had to be given priority.

“Then see you in two days. Have a good rest everyone.”

“Ahhh, I’m going to die of sleepiness, but it’s okay. It’s hard, hyung.”

Kijung logged out first. Jachung and Ram Hwajung waited for a while and logged out together. Bobae whispered to Nara and logged out. After getting briefly curious about the two women hitting each other’s arms while saying, “This, this!”

Kidd approached Leeha.

“Won’t you sleep?”

“What am I going to do outside?. If I sleep here, I can rest for two days.”

“……Well, you were such a person. No, I think it would be more efficient. Will you recover your fatigue?”

“Of course.”

As long as the connector and the body were connected, Leeha was suspicious that it would not work, but he did not pry further.

Kidd looked at Shin Nara for a moment and then came closer to Leeha.

“Lotzac is suspicious.”

“What?”

Why did he suddenly bring up Lotzac?

Leeha tilted for a moment but soon realized. Kidd was also a member of the Three Musketeers, and most of the quests he did must have been completed by Kidd already!

“But- didn’t Nara-ssi say that there was nothing wrong onLotzac’s side?”

Leeha didn’t think Kidd knew the relationship between Lotzac and Nara, and the current quest, but he was fully aware of it.

In other words, it meant that Shin Nara had investigated Lotzac from all possible angles for the past 5 days.

Kidd knew about it too. Hearing Leeha, Kidd slowly shook his head.

“Every time Lotzac came near the walls, he looked carefully.”

“What happened?”

“He has the habit of walking either in the east or the west garden every morning. The lizardia wasn’t sure, but he guessed that it’s a trap update.”

“Huh, is that so?”

“It did not happen today.”

Kidd said quietly. It was a short sentence. but it meant a lot.

“……There was no trap update? Is that what you’re saying?”

“I don’t know. Maybe it wasn’t a trap update. It could have been just mana training, or it could have been a simple walk.”

“Hmm…”

Leeha tilted his head. How should he interpret this? If it had been another NPC, he would have ignored it.

What Leeha wanted to do now was to protect the king, not block the entire castle.

‘But what if it was Rotzak……?’

It cannot be lightly ignored. However, they should not over-invest either. If they misinterpreted it and called everyone who went to rest, it would mean that they would have wasted everyone’s stamina without any result.

“Alright. For now, Kidd should also rest.”

“Of course.”

He didn’t mean to help from the start? He just let me know?

“R-right. Well, okay. It’s okay.”

Leeha laughed at Kidd’s answer. It was because he was confident that they could handle any situation by using the two shifts. After Kidd left, Leeha gathered the group.

(To be continued…)
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“Thank you for your hard work.”

“Hello, dame Shin Nara.”

The two guards bowed their heads toward Shin Nara. In the king’s bedroom, located in the middle of a wide and long corridor, two NPCs guarded the front door.

‘Compared to the Sacred Knights, they are low-leveled. The royal guards are different from the Knight Templars…’

Their priority was maintaining order in the royal palace. The most necessary thing for the job was authority and etiquette, not absolute skill.

Shin Nara knew that most of the personnel selected as NPC guards were children of noble families.

So, compared to other knights that prioritized competence, the Royal Guards were on the weak side.

“Well then……”

Even Shin Nara could not sit in front of the king’s bedroom, so she took a seat a little far from the NPC guards.

Even though there were various art decorations including portraits of successive kings, the large hallway looked even larger at night.

Shin Nara shook her head to awaken her tired brain.

‘Phew……. Wouldn’t it be great if we could arrange more of our members here? I would also be able to log out and sleep.’

If only ten, or at least, seven of the Sacred Knights took turns in guarding the front of the king’s bedroom, she would be able to spend a safe night.

Although Petyr was quite good, if the Sacred Knights had similar skills to the highest level users, seven of such people could completely block Petyr’s surprise attack.

‘Who would have known that NPCs, who were friendly before, could change in a day like this?’

Shin Nara let out a small sigh. When ordinary people raised their level through hunting or academy quests, she took a different path.

In a quest she did by chance, she got involved with the Sacred Knights, entered the royal palace, and leveled up by solving problems within the palace.

At least before this quest, for Shin Nara, the royal palace was like Leeha’s ‘musket academy’. In a sense, it could be said that it was as comfortable as her own home, but…….


‘Should I call it a political confrontation? Tsk, I didn’t know I would think like this. If I had known this would be the case, I would have just gone hunting with peace of mind! I wish I had done a solo raid like Lee Jiwon-’

Shin Nara, who had been lamenting about her situation while remembering the second-ranked magic swordsman for a moment, took a deep breath and organized her thoughts.

It was a luxury to be doing it now.

As the only person who could stand next to the king’s bedroom, she must do her best for the current quest.

‘Leeha-ssi made a special request. And- if I show him my cool figure-’

Shin Nara’s face was dyed red. She didn’t expect it, but Bobae came forward and did something unnecessary. 

‘He shouldn’t have said that! What if Leeha-ssi knew about it? Did he notice? However, in the last few days, there were no signs.’

Shin Nara recalled the fact that Leeha did not have a girlfriend and laughed.

Ting, ting, ting-

“Hmm?”

Shin Nara and the guards jumped at the sudden noise. A small ball rolled in from the other end of the dark hallway.

“Who?”

One of the guards made a low, thick voice.

The king’s bedroom was perfectly sound-proof, however, the guard could not raise his voice recklessly.

“What is this?”

There was a picture painted on the small iron ball that rolled over. There was no way Shin Nara would not be able to recognize the picture.

“Everyone, dodge!”

A white face with humorously emphasized cheekbones, a strawberry nose, and even painted around the eyes-!

“Yes? What?”

“Oh?”


Psssh——!

There was the sound of steam gushing out of the iron ball. White smoke leaked out beyond the reaction speed of humans, and the guards who inhaled it fell to their seats.

“Cough, cough, no-”

Shin Nara quickly pulled herself out, but she could not stop breathing. Maybe it was because of the smoke she inhaled for a moment.

Her vision sharply blurred. Shin Nara saw a white face appear in the dark hallway. It was not a clown mask, but a customized face, Middle Earth’s most terrible assassin!

“Petyr.”

However, that was all, Shin Nara’s body crumbled down. Before she lost consciousness, the lively and gloomy lyrics of a nursery rhyme sounded in her ears.

“London Bridge is falling down, falling down, falling down〜 London Bridge is falling down, my fair Lady!”

London Bridge is falling falling falling down, london Bridge is falling down-

“My beautiful lady- Uwa, Uhihihihi!”

Petyr’s protruding cheekbones shook. He danced like a child and approached Shin Nara. The tailed that protruded from his butt swayed in the darkness.

“Like this, uwahaha, you got caught so easily like this! Stupid! Idiot!”

And then he mercilessly kicked her as she fell. The sound of kicking a pig that had been slaughtered echoed through the dark hallway.

“It was so! Annoyingly! Difficult! Kuhahaha!”

Although she was wearing armor, there were a lot of areas that were not protected. Rather than killing Shin Nara, he acted as if he was taking small revenge on her, like a child.

His actions, which had been kicking Shin Nara with a giggle for a while, stopped. He glanced around as if he was being chased by something, and with a smile on his lips, he put his ear to the king’s bedroom. His ears opened like a cat, and collected sound.

“Are you having a good dream? It’s now time for the fun Hokey Pokey! Once I come back with the king’s head, we’ll- uwahaha, I- kuhihik! Like this, like this!”

Petyr, with a bizarre smile, as if he was possessed, ran out of the blue and kicked Shin Nara’s body again. It was like a little kid’s kick that was not used to kicking a soccer ball, but he did not care and smiled.

“Haa, haa, good. Alright, I will play with ma’am again later.”

Petyr went to the king’s bedroom. After gently pushing the head of the guards leaning on the wall, he pushed the two huge doors. The door opened without even the noise of the hinges, and finally, the Fibiel king’s bed appeared.


“I win!”

There were no guards. No one could stop him. The naked body of the most powerful person in Middle Earth will soon be revealed! And the drastic change that one gesture of his, will bring shock throughout Middle Earth.

“That moment is the most enjoyable! I will shock the entire continent! There’s nothing more enjoyable than seeing people’s shocked faces-!” Petyr felt a sprain for a moment. A ray of light came from behind!

Kiyoooo!

Pang-!

The space where he had been was pierced. The fierce energy, that seemed to tear even the afterimage to death, did not stop.

“Lunge!”

When he heard her voice as sharp as her skill, Petyr had no choice but to face his favorite ‘surprise’.

“Puhi, puhihihihi! Shin maaaaaa’aaaam! How?!”

Bang- Bang- Bang-!

It was a chain of stabbing attacks, but Petyr’s movements were as fast. It was a movement unique to the “Miyaw” race, in which all attacks were nullified by continuously performing high-speed back tumbling.

“Shut your wretched mouth, Petyr! I am arresting you for the act of attempting to assassinate the king!”

The position of Shin Nara and Petyr changed after a few attacks. In front of the king’s bed, holding a rapier wrapped in soft blue light, Shin Nara pointed the tip of her sword in a dignified posture.

“There’s no way the sleeping gas’ duration is already over……. Pfft, did you think I would come?”

The cat’s whiskers twitched across his bulging white cheekbones. However, Shin Nara did not respond to Petyr’s words. Even if they actually knew, they had a reason for making such a situation, even by acting.

“Your majesty! Wake up! The proof that Lotzac’s trap has been broken is right before your eyes! Someone tried to harm you by breaking into the palace!”

It was for this reason. It was a plan that Leeha made in order to implicate Lotzac perfectly! In order to do so, they had to let the king see Petyr with his own eyes even if they had to take a risk.

‘Alright! In the end, no one was able to catch Petyr until he had come this far, but now-’

Scrolls and potions to resist all kinds of status abnormalities were provided by Hwahong. All the others were outside surveilling, and only Shin Nara was placed in front of the king’s bedroom.

They were supposed to notify her immediately once they found Petyr, but she did not receive any message

‘It means that everyone missed him.’

When the iron ball rolled in, the plan the Leeha had set up and they had practiced fell apart, but it was fine anyway. Now, if the king personally confirmed that he saw Petyr, the royal palace’s security would be strengthened several times, and they would also be able to catch the suspicious Lotzac’s tail!

“……Your majesty！”

Shin Nara raised her voice once more. However, there was no response from the king’s bed behind her.

“Puhihi, puhi! Did you not think that you were already too late, ma’aaam~?”

“Your Majesty?!”

Already late? As soon as he opened the door, she ran in. But late? Does that mean the king is dead? Shin Nara hurriedly turned around. It was an action that had to be taken at risk in front of the Miyaw race’s assassin, but she had no choice.

“Your majesty!”

The expression of the king lying on the bed was very peaceful. His chest could be seen going up and down. At that moment, Shin Nara already knew. She knew that Petyr knew that the king would not wake up. In other words, Shin Nara expected the sleeping gas from outside to have an effect here. And what was the reason she turned even if she knew? In a battle between experts, even a 0.1-second delay in reaction could be fatal!

“Ta-da, supriiiiii-se!”

Shiiing-!

The cat folded his body in half and flew in a flash. The place that the nails of the Miyaw, which boasted greater strength than steel, aimed at the nape of Shin Nara’s white neck.

“Contre-”

Shin Nara immediately cast a counterattack skill, but she felt that it was already too late. And at that moment, a thick green light spread from the entrance to the king’s bedroom.

“Poison cover – Toad! ”

It was the fact that they had decided to notify each other immediately when one of them found Petyr, it meant that when the iron ball rolled, everyone already knew that Petyr had arrived.

(To be continued…)
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Hwaat- The miyaw’s claws scratched Shin Nara’s neck. However, it was rather shallow to be flustered. It was natural that once caught on his nails, the target would turn gray, but what was with her reaction?

The miyaw’s nails could not penetrate her neck, which had been coated in a glistening white liquid, as if it had been candied. It just slipped as the nails drew a few thin solid lines.

“Psss?! Toad poison?”

Petyr’s center of gravity was shaken by the unexpected sensation, and at that moment, Shin Nara’s skill was cast.

“-attaque! ”

“Uwaaa! Slow, slow!”

It was a sword shot like a snake, however, it was not able to catch the squirrel-like cat. Even though it was a posture that would have completely collapsed if it was human, the Miyaw, who walked on four legs, was able to endure. Shin Nara’s counterattack was only able to shave a little bit of hair from Petyr’s body.

“Tsk, Biyemi-ssi! Push him!”

Shin Nara shouted in front of the king’s bed. If they left the king’s presence against that quick guy, something unstoppable would happen.

“Kikis, leave it to us! Tale-nim!”

“Let’s go quickly, Biyemi-nim! Fire dash!”

Tale’s sword lit up as he held his sword in a drawing posture. As the name suggest, Tale’s body moved. It had a similar move in kumdo, it was an attack in a straight line, and it quickly narrowed the distance, Petyr smiled and waved his arms.

“Pfft, with only these things-”

“I knew it would be like this. Poison resin!”

Biyemi cast and green grains seeped out, as the lizardia moved to support Tale, he spat out poison as much as he could. The lump of green poured down, passed through Petyr’s body, and fell to the floor. Even standing still, he couldn’t help but laugh at the attack that couldn’t hit him.

“Pffft!”

“Kikis, it’s still too early to laugh! Tale-nim!”

“Prick!”


The flaming sword pierced towards Petyr’s neck with precision. Of course, such an attack was meaningless to an assassin who could avoid it without having to respond. The lizardia chased after the miyaw, who turned and avoided the attack.

“Aren’t you fast for a mage?”

Swiik. Biyemi swung his dagger. Petyr recognized the dark turquoise-covered dagger. And that he should never run into that.

“Kiik-!”

So he hesitated and backed away, and his face wrinkled for the first time. Because the miyaw noticed something clinging to the fur of his feet.

“Resin containing poison……. I wasn’t able to avoid it with skill?”

His raised cheekbones slowly went down. As his face, which had been smiling all the time, became serious, tension quickly revolved around the room.

“That dagger……. And you reading my movements as if anticipating it……. As well as the poison resin that seals evasion skills……. You’re probably-”

His eyelids tightened and glared at Biyemi. However, he was not able to easily recognize the scaly lizard’s face. Most importantly, no one would watch when they are able to see the gap. If his movement was sealed, this would be the only chance!

“Exodus Sword (出道劍)!”

Tale’s feet moved like water. It was an unavoidable attack if the target’s skills were locked.

“-I guess you know me. But that’s just the ‘old me’. Puhihihi, ‘Shadow Switch’！”

“New skill?”

Biyemi’s eyes widened as well. Petyr, who got caught in the poisonous resin, and Tale, who was rushing, switched in an instant.

“Cough?! T-This-”

The person standing on the poison resin was Tale. And in his previous position, Petyr was located. As the poison that sealed skills seeped into Tale’s skin, the fire in his sword went out. And because Tale had a similar level to Biyemi, the effect was greater. Shin Nara still had to protect the king, Tale’s skills were sealed, and Biyemi could not stop Petyr by himself! The fortunate thing was that the three of them have been fighting for a long time now. Petyr knew well that the sleeping gas was running out of time.

“Puhihihi, besides Shin Nara, will ‘Biyemi’ and ‘Tale’ keep blocking’? 42 days?”

“Shut up, you animal! I will stop you without fail!”

“Uhihihi, all I need is a second out of 42 days! One second is enough to cut off the king’s head! But you? Puhihihi, how about you?! If it’s 42 days, there are still 1,008 hours left 60,480 in minutes! And in seconds?”

Petyr walked on all fours to the king’s bedroom. He showed a natural four-legged walk and had a clear sense of ease with his tail. Although he would not be able to kill the king right away, he was confident that he would be able to get out of this place.


“Puhihihi, it’s 368,000 seconds! While you have to keep him alive for 368,000 seconds, I only need a 1-second gap! Isn’t it obvious who would win this game?”

They wanted to pierce Petyr’s body right away, but Shin Nara and Biyemi stopped themselves Petyr stood up on both feet and gestured like a gentleman.

“It’s a pity, but I have to step back today, see you next time! Puhihih! This is just a preview!”

Shhh- The cat hid in the dark. Shin Nara, Biyemi, and Tale did not relax until his presence was definitely gone.

“He’s gone.”

Tale clenched his teeth. He thought he was quite familiar with fighting against humans and monsters. Tale thought it was a pity that he wasn’t familiar with the movements of the miyaw race, what was worse was that he was against Petyr, the 5th in the global ranking.

“Tsk, I got it all……”

Shin Nara made a sound of regret. However, ‘I got it all’ was an inappropriate expression.

“Now they won’t have a choice but to believe.”

Biyemi did not even laugh. There was only one card left against Petyr, who was stronger than he expected.

-The sparrow went out of the basket. The grain is unharmed.

-Copy. Waiting for a catcher.

“Phew-”

In the dark, the night wind fluttered in Leeha’s hair. Now the ball has been passed to him.

‘He really came……’

When he heard the story from Kidd, he didn’t expect it. But as soon as Lotzac showed abnormal behavior, he immediately appeared like this.

‘Their connection with each other has become even stronger.’

Leeha bit his lip. If he knew this would happen, it would have been better if he called everyone and prepared. If the king’s bedroom not only had Shin Nara, Tale, and Biyemi, but also, Ram Hwajung, Bobae, Kijung, and Jachung, the situation would have ended. Even the miyaw, who was similar to a human only with strange movements, would not have been able to escape from those people.

‘It’s too late to think about it now. A lot of hours would have passed if I log out now and call them…. Now, I have to focus.’

There was only one goal, Petyr. Leeha took out the Black Bass’s magazine, checked the five bullets, put them back together, and quietly pulled the bolt to load one shot. Click! He watched from the central tower during the day, however, he did not see Petyr. It probably meant that Petyr made use of the darkness of the night after Lotzac tried his best in preventing the trap from working properly.


‘He could come whenever he wants. But when he gets out……’

Its been a week since the surveillance was created at the central tower of the royal palace. The structure of the palace as well as the trap locations were .invisible from the ground but visible in the air In addition, what if one considered Petyr’s condition of getting out in a hurry?

The sound of a small beast running on the grass reached Leeha’s ears.

‘He is moving right about here.’

However, the darkness was deep. The light magic of the royal palace, which was regularly arranged, could not illuminate the square’s shadow. He was also well aware of that fact.

-Ram Hwayeon! Fire!

In an instant, red grains gathered from the top of the tower of the central palace, where Leeha and Bobae stood guard all along.

In the quiet night of the royal palace, a woman’s voice spread like ripples.

Marble Flare!

Whaaak-!

Red and yellow flames spread through the darkness into the sky of the royal palace.

Like the northern lights of the north pole, the flames that spread through the air illuminated the ground as if it were the sun.

“Ohoo! Suprise fireworks?!”

Petyr made the awning with his hands and looked up at the sky. He couldn’t even open his eyes properly because of the sudden brilliance. In other words, it was already too late when Petyr realized that there was another figure watching him in the dark.

“No, this is the real surprise.”

Even the light that lit up the night sky could not bring out the luster of the weapon Leeha was holding. The matte black gun and muzzle of the 『Legendary Black Bass』 that beyond musket was aimed precisely at Petyr’s chest. With the knee-shooting posture intact, Leeha pulled the trigger.

Baang–!

The sound of the gunpowder explosion was different from the sound of a musket firing. The monstrous bullet with an estimated attack power of more than 17,000 ripped the heart of the beast apart.

『Intimacy with Fibiel’s Royal Family increased by 5%.』

“Phew…”

Leeha slowly cleared his breathing. There was a hole in Petyr’s chest, but the miyaw’s eyes were staring straight at Leeha.

“Puhihi, I will remember you, ‘Ha Leeha’.”

His face, like a clown’s mask, was full of blood, and it was terrifying, but Leeha did not avert his eyes.

“Remember me dearly.”

Kuung, the miyaw’s body spread across the palace ground. Leeha whispered to everyone.

-The situation has ended, the situation has ended. The sparrow was shot by the gunner.

– Waaaah-?! Really?! You really killed him, Leeha-ssi?

-As expected! Ha Leeha-kun, I knew you would definitely do it.

-What, you were able to catch him because of my light! Don’t pretend that you did it yourself!

While the whispers of Shin Nara, Tale, and Ram Hwayeon, filled with joy, echoed through Leeha’s mind, a quiet foreboding sentence was heard.

– Petyr’s dead?

-Yes. Biyemi-nim, please come quickly too.

-What about the body? Body?

Hearing the urgent voice, Leeha tilted his head. Normally, Biyemi was the kind of person who would laugh and say that he was surprised….

-The body? It is in the garden with a punctured chest-

And when he turned again, Leeha could understand Biyemi’s concern.

-No, it’s not there! It disappeared-

Looking around, Leeha had no choice but to shout.

“Stop, Petyr!!!”

Because the miyaw, who had a hole in his chest, was crawling on the ground on all fours. With a click, he immediately pulled the bolt to reload. Now, he didn’t need time to reload, he didn’t even need to use skills. When he tried to pull the trigger toward the miyaw by lifting the 『Black Bass』 again, which produced higher attack power than a skill of a musket with normal attack damage.

The duration of the marble flare has expired. The moment the light source that lit up the royal palace disappeared.

Baaang—!

A gunshot rang later.

(To be continued…)
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“Uh? What…… gunshot?”

Ram Hwayeon heard a loud gunshot as she descended from the lookout tower of the central palace. There should have been no reason for her to hear a gunshot now. Why did he suddenly use his weapon when he said that Petyr was dead?

-What’s happening?

-Ha Leeha?

There was no response. At that moment, another gunshot rang out. There were 3 in total.

Ram Hwayeon’s face darkened. There might be another assassin. The thought that there was something wrong made her hasten.

“Haa, haa.”

She rushed down the round stairs of the lookout tower and ran towards Leeha’s hiding spot.

The worrying thought that something happened to Leeha did not leave her head.

“Ha Leeha!”

“Ram Hwayeon!”

She screamed in the dark. Fortunately, Leeha’s voice was still lively. Since he said that Petyr was already dead, she was worried that the members of Midnight Circus who had been hiding somewhere had come running.

If several agile assassins rushed in, no matter how strong Leeha was, he would not be able to endure it. However, he was still alive. The problem was that she was in danger. Even in the dark, something violent ran toward her. When she discovered ten nails that shone reflected by the slightest moonlight, she couldn’t even think of casting a counterattack. Because it was too late anyway.

“Puhihim, another surprise?!”

“Ah- uh-”

“Duck! Ram Hwayeon, duck!!”

Petyr’s sharp claws pointed towards Ram Hwayeon’s chest. She only had one thought. She had to live. And if she wanted to live, she had to listen to Leeha!

“Kyaaak!”


Baaang–!

Another gunshot rang out. The huge bullet matching the size of a sniper rifle pierced Petyr’s shoulder and tore off one of his arms.

The timing was enough to brush the tip of Ram Hwayeon’s hair, who was squatting!

『Intimacy with Fibiel’s Royal Family increased by 5%.』

“Puhihihi”

“kyaaak!”

Petyr, running towards Ram Hwayeon, lost his focus and rolled over.

One of his arms was torn and blood was gushing out like a fountain, but the miyaw crawled on the floor.

“Damn it! Give me a break!”

In such a ridiculous situation, Leeha’s thoughts did not work properly. What? The first bullet definitely punctured his chest. Now, the hole was clearly visible to Leeha.

The second shot missed because of the sudden darkness, and the third missed because of Petyr’s unpredictable movements, but this time, it definitely hit. Was there any creature that could live with one arm and a hole in their chest? Okay, let’s say it was in Middle Earth. Even so, would he have the health to survive if he got hit by two bullets with an estimated attack power of 17,000 each? Moreover, if he was an assassin? At least as far as Leeha knew, it shouldn’t be. Even Kijung, a tanker, would not be able to withstand this bullet if he got hit in the chest!

‘This is Middle Earth after all. It’s okay, it has always exceeded my expectation.’

Click, and he reloaded again.

This time, it would be over. If he lives, he lives.

“Let’s see if he can eat this Snipe, mana clairvoyance, and-”

This time, he wouldn’t miss. Leeha would smash Petyr’s appalling face.

The 『Legendary Black Bass』 resonated slightly.

Even in the dark without a light source, Leeha was able to accurately see the target. The silhouette of the enemy shone in the darkness through the infrared clairvoyance.

“-Calm Mind.”

He tried to put his finger on the trigger while controlling his breathing, but Leeha soon clenched his teeth. Although Petyr only had one arm, his movement and skills were still there.


“Puhihihi, are you going to kill me like this? Will you kill me?”

Petyr captured Ram Hwayeon with only one arm and stood in front of Leeha. In that short period of time, calm mind’s duration had already ended and lost its effectiveness.

“Shoot! Shoot, Ha Leeha! Puhihihi, shoot! Kwang, kwang! Kikis.”

And Petyr, who caught the gap in time, was slowly stepping backward, almost completely overlapping with Ram Hwayeon, whom he had caught. Leeha clenched his teeth as he heard the mad clown’s provocation. But should it be called lucky? Petyr took the wrong hostage. Ram Hwayeon was a woman who preferred to die rather than be used as a hostage.

“Shoot! Just shoot! I-I’m fine with dying! If we catch this guy, we will-”

“It’s not the end though! Kuhaha, be careful! It would not be over! There are a lot of time left! I can come back anytime and kill as much as I want! Killing me now will only buy you ten days, I only need a second!”

“-Don’t listen to him, Ha Leeha! Shoot!” She did not have the time to cast magic. She should have used an instant cast item, but it was her fault for being surprised and flustered by Petyr’s bizarre appearance and surprise. If so, she must accept it. Even if she died, she would take Petyr with her, the king’s safety will be guaranteed for the next 10 days. The ordinary assassins of Midnight Circus will be blocked by the rest of the team.

Even in that brief moment when she was taken hostage, Ram Hwayeon decided that the most efficient way for everyone participating in the quest to solve the problem would be her and Petyr’s simultaneous death.

“L-Leeha-ssi!”

“Taking a woman hostage..”

Shin Nara, Tale, and Biyemi all came down. Leeha was in a position where his gun was not lowered.

However, unlike his companions who could not move quickly, Petyr and Ram Hwayeon were slowly entering the darkness.

“Shoot, Ha Leeha, shoot!”

“Puhihi, good. Let’s die together. Dying together with a woman is always welcome! I can die twelve more times!”

A cry mixed with bizarre laughter penetrated Leeha’s ears. In this case, he knew that Petyr is going to be cheeky. Even if he lowered his gun, what was the probability of Ram Hwayeon staying alive? There was none. If that was the case, wouldn’t it be better for Leeha to shoot? However, not knowing the end of Petyr was a problem for Leeha. He was a guy that could still get up and walks around even when he should have already died. Leeha did not know how Petyr was still moving.

‘What if……. I shot both of them, but Petyr is able to read the timing and avoid it? Or, what if he still lives while Ram Hwayeon died?’

Petyr’s bloodshot eyes were focused precisely on Leeha. Even while he was taking a step backward, he was still staring at Leeha’s fingers. If he read the timing and avoided it, that would be the worst case. Only Ram Hwayeon would die and Petyr might succeed in escaping.

‘No, I shouldn’t worry. It’s a game anyway. I have to shoot. I just need to shoot.’

He could shoot. It would be enough as long as he believed in his abilities! However, Leeha’s excellent sniper skill was hindered.

‘Is it possible to avoid Ram Hwayeon and just hit Petyr? It should be possible for me. It would be possible if I were given an opportunity-’


Will that opportunity come? Still, thanks to mana clairvoyance, Petyr can be seen clearly in the dark. However, the duration will end soon. If that time comes, will he be able to hit that quick guy in the darkness? It was a plan if it could be achieved. However, if not, then it could only be called greed. Leeha was greedy. Until this moment.

“Kikis, Petyr!”

Puheok, shwaa! Shoot- hmm?”

Step, step Biyemi stepped out of the green grass. Everyone’s eyes, including Ram Hwayeon, turned to the Lizardia. Biyemi’s voice was different from usual.

“You have grown a lot. You have charged it more than once.”

“……Y-you- T-that voice! Besides, that move! Puhihi, you! Nguyen-”

At Biyemi’s words, Petyr’s facial muscles greatly moved. Words that nobody in the room was able to understand. What was more curious than the content of the conversation was the relationship between the two. Who is Biyemi? Was he acquainted with Petyr? When everyone’s brains were focused on one thought, they couldn’t focus on the target as much as Leeha.

“Haa…”

Because that was not what was important right now. Leeha’s muzzle did not wobble. Petyr already lost his focus on Leeha. If he couldn’t read the timing, no matter how quick he was, he wouldn’t be faster that a bullet at that distance. If so, Leeha was confident. At this moment, his greed became confidence.

‘I should hit without fail.’

Leeha pulled the trigger. The shot ripped through the air and passed under Ram Hwayeon’s ear and pierced Petyr’s neck.

“Haa…… haa…”

The only thing that spread through the gardens of the royal palace was the sound of breathing. No one was able to speak.

『Intimacy with Fibiel’s Royal Family increased by 5%.』

A system message appeared. However, this time, the reaction was different. Most importantly, the white light from Leeha’s body and numerous notification windows blocked his eyes.

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

『Achievement : Ranker Hunter(Topl0) – 5th rank, “Petyr”(A)』

Congratulations! You killed the 5th of Middle Earth’s top 10 highest level users. I hope you didn’t kill him by luck. He might come back to steal the achievement of ‘Ranker Hunter’! Please be careful! Effect: 34 temporary stat points (recovered when the target user dies) (The achievement does not have a hall of fame.)

『Achievement: Midnight Circus Target(B)』

Should you celebrate? You are targeted by the Midnight Circus, one of the continent’s strongest assassins. This is a proof that your skills have been recognized! The fanfare in the middle of the night hid the screams. It is not possible to have a comfortable dream in the future.

Assassination indicator: Petyr (Miyaw, midnight Circus Vice-leader)

Effect: 28 temporary stat points(Recovered upon the target’s death)

(This achievement does not have a hall of fame.)

‘Should I congratulate you?’

Leeha frantically confirmed the achievements He had already seen the ranker hunter achievement when he caught Igor, but it was the first time he saw the target achievement.

‘Is it similar to the ranker hunter…?’

Was it one of the systems of Middle Earth to enforce rivalry between users? Besides, it was a system that turned a single group into an enemy, not a party, like the ranker hunter.

“Dead…… me?”

After a while, Shin Nara went to Petyr. It was a man that deserved death. Even though his body had turned gray, it was difficult to be certain of his death.

“I think he is definitely dead this time. Phew…”

Leeha grabbed the Black Bass and walked towards Petyr. His level has risen, and the achievement of Agromni Igor appeared. The achievement ‘Ranker Hunter’ can only be obtained by those who killed a ranker. This achievement could be regarded as a death certificate.

Leeha shook his head as he looked at Petyr’s body which had changed to salted green. He had faced many users and many monsters. Even the Brass Golem was killed in one blow, and even the eye of the field boss Cyclops was destroyed. If it was a user, there was a time when Agromni Igor’s face was smashed. However. Petyr was even more bizarre than a field boss or Agromni Igor. He could get a rough idea of what it meant to have the worst reputation on Middle Earth.

“It’s not an alien, it moves even if it s arms and legs fly off-”

“Ha…… Ha Leeha!!!”

While everyone was preoccupied with Petyr’s corpse, only one woman’s eyes were fixed on Leeha. Her red hair fluttered in the night sky as it covered Leeha’s body.

(To be continued…)
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“-Kwaak-!”

Ram Hwayeon ran to Leeha at full speed, embraced him, and collapsed in the palace garden.

She burried her face in Leeha, even looking a little bit cute. However, because she was quite a tall woman, Leeha struggled and had difficulty breathing.

“Kwaaak! I- thought you were really going to shoot me-”

“W-wait! Kaak!”

“-Is it because of me? Huh? That? Thank you, really! For me, you-”

“No, that- for now, please get off of me! It’s heavy!” It was like a scene from a movie, like lovers lying on the meadow, and confirming their love. However, Ram Hwayeon stopped moving after she heard Leeha’s words.

“……Huh?”

“What did you say?”

Ram Hwayeon felt the blood rushing out of her forehead. Of course, it wasn’t possible.

“No, that- my head hurts a little. Because you suddenly ran into me-”

Leeha, in his bewilderment, suddenly pointed his finger. Ram Hwayeon laid on top of him on the floor. The soft thing touching his stomach was probably….

“Oh? Ohh? No, wait! What does that-”

“T-this pervert!”

Paak-!

It was an attack that may have been the first PK declaration in the history of Middle Earth in Fibiel’s Royal Palace.

“Kikis, I hope the trap explodes. Right?”

“Hmm…. First of all, a recording. We could play it later. Kay needs to see this.”


Biyemi and Tale looked at them and smiled. Shin Nara, who was surprised, flustered, and bewildered by some kind of anger-like emotion boiling in her heart, couldn’t laugh.

“Hali-hali-nim! Hurry up and get the items! It will disappear soon!”

Biyemi laughed and pointed to the floor. Another shiny gift was waiting for its owner, next to Petyr’s body.

***

“Are you okay?”

“Yes. The members of the royal guards confirmed it, and the captain of the royal guards also acknowledged it. Lotzac, I am looking forward to tomorrow.”

Shin Nara returned to the conference room.

How much time had passed since Petyr made an uproar? The guards, who appeared in haste, nodded their heads when they checked Pety’s dead body and the trap that didn’t work.

Although it was the captain of the royal guard that kept the Sacraed Knights in chect, it was a fact that the king’s life was threatened.

His neck could get cuf off if he prioritized his self-interest, so of course he had no choice but to side with Shin Nara.

“Kikis, you’ve worked hard. In the next ten days, Petyr won’t come……. It will be difficult for the Midnight Circus members to break through the increased security alone-”

“Are you relieved now?”

“Yes.”

Biyemi nodded at Shin Nara’s question. The lizardia, Biyemi, had attracted people’s attention since he first appeared. However, at that time, it was mostly curiosity. Now, after his unknown conversation with Petyr, there was a trillion won question remained in everyone’s mind in awe.

“Biyemi-nim.”

“Yes?”

“That well, what did you talk with Petyr? It was like you knew each other.”

“Kikis, well. It is like that. It doesn’t matter.”

“Again, you’re like that again. Please tell us quickly.”

Of course, while everyone was having hard time with Biyemi, Leeha still treated him comfortably. Because, it was nothing new. From the first time they met at Candle Castle, Biyemi was suspicious. In the first place, he already treated him with suspicion, so nothing has changed now.


“Perhaps- hmm- this is what I think. Biyemin-nim……. Is this your secondary character? No, rather than a secondary character- it’s a second character.”

“I heard it too. I was a little confused by the gunshot made by Ha Leeha-kun, but I clearly heard “Nguyen”…” Shin Nara and Tale opened their mouths. That was the real reason they were in awe.. It was because, they had a vague idea of Biyemi’s true identity.

“It’s probably right. It’s been over 5 months since Middle Earth opened. In terms of Middle Earth time, two years have already passed. If it is now, it is possible that you have deleted your character you made in the beginning and made a new one…. And the Nguyen that Petyr spoke of was-”

“In the first month of opening, he was one of the top 10 rankers. If there’s Agromni Igor of the giant race, then there is Nguyen of the miyaw, a master that can be called the number one in the entire miyaw race…. Apparently, he vanished one day.”

“I know, because I have competed with him several times. Besides, he was also an assassin. Nguyen, poison assassin that was paired with Petyr The phase ‘When two cats danced, there would be no living being before them-’ was used to described their assassinations……”

“He knows an assassin’s skills and Midnight Circus well, even though you changed your race, you still chose a ‘poison-related’ job- I think Nguyen would be right……”

The two of them exchanged their thoughts.. These were facts that made even Ram Hwayeon’s pupil dilate. Biyemi, who was the main topic, only laughed intermittently with a kiskis sound.

“I-I heard of it from Hwajung a few times. She said he even came to kill her! You-”

“Kikis, Ram Hwajung was truly a Middle Earth genius. It was the first time I had gone with Petyr to assassinate someone and failed. She was so good at running away. It was the first time I learned that ice magic could be used that way. Kikis. Thanks to that, what started as a ranker hunting was blocked by Ram Hwajung, who was rank 10 at the time, and I gave up on all that.”

Biyemi meekly admitted. He thought that there was no benefit on hiding it any longer.

Ram Hwayeon had a difficult time deciding how to deal with the man who had tried to killd her sister at least once. Of course, her thoughts on what was right depended on the price. Her eyes lit up for a moment and she looked at Biyemi, but soon her expression softened.

“T-That’s right! I thought Nguyen and Petyr was going to kill those in the top 100! There used to be a lot of talk about it, but they did not touch the top 10! Was it because of Ram Hwajung…?”

It was Shin Nara who was surprised to hear the story behind the scenes(?). At one time, she was very nervous, and she was afraid to the extent of avoiding dark hunting grounds as much as possible.

“It was easy to get to the 11th place. Kikis. It was a fun time. If Ram Hwajung got assassinated at that time, wouldn’t it have been possible to catch Shin Nara too?”

Biyemi laughed lightly. Even after hearing those words, Shin Nara did not feel bad. In fact, there were only a handful of people who have benn the target of two assassins and survived. It was not uncommon to have an expert that could fight againts a 2 vs 1 surprise attack and win.

“Then why…… why did you create another character? That was when Crazy Clown Petyr, no, ‘Benham Nguyen’ and ‘Surprise Petyr’ was skyrocketing.”

At Shin Nara’s question, Biyemi shut his mouth. Still, the lizardia and Leeha have known each other the longest. The lizard had a rare expression, but they could roughly guess just by looking at his face.

“You were betrayed. So you came back to get revenge. Even though you weren’t human before, miyaw is still pretty human-like, so you made your character into lizardia so you wouldn’t get caught, right?”

“Kis. As expected of Ha Leeha-nim. That’s right.”

Leeha knew because he met Petyr Anyway, they were beastmen similar to humans. He must have thought that even if he recreated his character, there was a possibility of getting caught if Biyemi made his character into a human, giant, or wood elf.


‘He could hide it to some extent by customizing. However, he tried to be more careful. Had he been betrayed that much? How was he going to get revenge…?”

What could have been such a huge betrayal? Leeha remembered the bloody battle. If Petyr’s purpose was not to retreat, but to fight, the situation could have been dangerous enough for Leeha himself. No, rather, in such a situation, killing Leeha and running away would have been the choice that an ordinary assassin would do.

There was a reason why the expert assassin, Petyr, just wanted to runaway even though he knew there were people who were pursuing him or trying to catch him. It was a situation that Leeha could not fully understand. Betrayal that was enough to get a character deleted.

There was only one ‘result’ to which everything pointed to.

“That betrayal must have something to do with Petyr’s multilple lives. Maybe an item? Achievement?”

Biyemi’s expression hardened at Leeha’s speculation. He nodded slowly.

“It’s not a very pleasant story…”

“Can’t you tell us?”

Shin Nara looked at Biyemi and asked.

“Kikis, okay. If you want to face Petyr again in ten days, it would be good for you to know. Ah, don’t tell the second group that I was Nguyen. Especially Ram Hwajung.”

Biyemi looked Ram Hwayeon gently and asked. As soon as she nodded her head, he finally began to recall his old story.

“As you know, the setting of the subhumans is that they are a minority group. Various settings were specialized so that the professions such as ninjas are advantageous to miyaw. They almost had no footsteps…. Most people who play miyaw will probably have no choice but to be an assassin.”

“Isn’t it induced that way?”

Biyemi nodded at Shin Nara’s question. In case of humans, when their character was created, they are randomly placed in Fibiel or Minis kingdom. However, subhumans were different. In the case of giants, they start from one of the human kingdoms, but wood elves, miyaw, lizardia, and other races have their own starting village. That’s the reason why it’s hard to see players of other races at low levels. Of course, there are players who belong to the human kingdom after that, and even if they belong to a country, there are players who go to a country where many of their races gather- Shazrashian federation for giants, for example.

Similarly, humans are free enough to change their country through asylum.

“You will find out when you play in the starting village, but it is because of the wish of the race. Kikis.”

“Wish?”

“It is a quest related to the legends and folktales of each race. Other races could not clear it…. A special quest only for a few races. The achievements and items that come out as rewards are beyond imagination.”

“I see. Then, in the case of miyaw-”

“Right. This is a quest related to the assassination. They have been sneaking in some clues at the beginner village even before choosing a profession, so of course we had no choice but to choose assassin as our jobs. Kikis. If you think about it now, it it absolute competition. It was unique to Middle Earth.”

Hearing Biyemi’s words, Leeha nodded. It was obvious what it would be like.

Thousands or tens of thousands of players were given similar quests, and only one of them can get complete it, or something like that.

‘In the case of the musketeers, it’s a very unpopular job, and I am glad they gave 3 people a chance. Even Kijung said that the special quest related to Templars could not be completed. It seems to be the case for the miyaw assassins.’

Maybe it had something to do with the second human-demon war? Leeha carefully waited for Biyemi’s words.

『An enemy that could not be killed using one life, what is needed to catch the Demon King is not hundreds of thousands of soldiers, but one assassin.』 Kikis, the flow of different quest are intertwined. Petyr and I, who were overwhelmingly ahead from the very beginning of Middle Earth, finally reached a point that we agreed that cooperation was the key to clear the quests faster.”

As expected. At the words “Demon King”, Leeha nodded. Biyemi continued to speak after thoroughly examining whether the people around him would have understood his story.

“That was the reward from there. 

‘A cat with nine lives ’……. Kikis, Middle Earth is a western game. Is there such a western proverb?”

“Huh?”

“That is the reward. Nine lives. Each time he meets a condition, he gains one life.”

(To be continued…)
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“Yes•••? T-that… That’s why he didn’t die. In fact, isn’t it good to say that the damage is completely ignored? It means that no matter how high the attack power is, he would come back to life.

Everyone else was stunned and were at a loss for words.

Being fraudulent should be done in moderation, how will they fight against a person with multiple lives?

“Still, if we kill him multiple times, he will eventually die, right? If I had known, I would have shot him in the arm or leg first, not chest. Even if he survives several times, he wouldn’t be able to do anything with his arms and legs cut off-”

It would have been the best course of action. Otherwise, it would have just be like beating an ottogi.

The ability was close to fraudulent, however, for Leeha, who already dealt with it, its weakness was immediately identified

Of course, that was only arrogance.

“Kikis, I have seen Leeha-nim’s ‘mas.sive’ attack power, however, he didn’t do anything to you.”

“Yes?”

“It’s I sealed his skills and he couldn’t use anything.”

“What? Ah, that- I see……”

He did not use any skills to face, no, to run away from Leeha. It was because Biyemi’s venom-stained resin had permeated and sealed his skills.

In the king’s bedroom, he showed a trick of changing positions with Tale using a skill close to the basics, but it did not cooldown, so there was no skill that could be used when he dealt with Leeha.

In other words, Leeha was able to win because Biyemi tied Petyr’s hands and feet..

“Kikis, if Petyr had been such a week guy, I wouldn’t be here right now. Most importantly, you shouldn’t look down on those who have 『Legendary』-grade items. The quest needed to get that item was-”

“L-legend! Really? You barely got the 『Legendary』 item at that time? Even now, the number of Legendary-grade items that have been revealed could be counted in one had-”

Shin Nara asked in shock.

What she was saying now was that it happened in the early days of Middle Earth, when only one month had passed since it started. In other words, it meant that only five months have passed in Middle Earth time.


Leeha had not known the game yet at that time, but those who have been playing since the early days of Middle Earth could not helped but be amazed. They compared their situations at that time.

If they compared themselves, who got special or rare-grade items, how far ahead were those who got legendary-grade ones?

“Because what is known by the public is different from the real situation. Who would want to reveal their treasure?. Even Shin Nara-nim didn’t reveal all the specifications of that sword, right?”

“Ah- t-that…”

“Kikis, it’s the same for anyone.”

When Shin Nara panicked, Biyemi smiled and looked at Leeha. No,to be precise, he was looking at the leather case containing 『Black Bass』, which leaned on Leeha’s chair.

As if he was saying, ‘Isn’t it a Legend item as well?’.

“C-cough, Petyr isn’t even amusing, his item is a big deal. Anyway. Was the quest condition to get that item a betrayal?”

“That’s right. Middle Earth gave such a quest. It is described ‘You don’t need friends in the world of assassins. Sacrifice your most precious thing.”

Biyemi’s expression darkened. In light of the word ‘sacrifice’ and the current situation, there was only one case they could think of.

“Maybe that sacrifice……?”

“Forced character deletion.”

Biyemi sighed coldly.

“That’s crazy! That’s nonsense! How can he do that?!”

“Kikis, it is what it is, halihali-nim. I filed a lawsuit against Goople after being harmed, but I seriously thought about it- there was no way to win. Obviously, before accepting the quest, the game system gave enough notice and warnings that I could get beaten using the game system. I just thought I was going to win…”

Biyemi also tried to sacrifice someone. However, he lost.

Of course, everyone knew who that ‘someone’ was.

“Petyr won.”

They were after each other. However, Biyemi, then ‘Nguyen’, was defeated by Petyr and his character disappeared forever.

“It was a trap. Surprise~ That was the first time I realized that that crazy guy was so meticulous.”


“Then, rather than betrayal-”

“Right. Strictly speaking, it was not betrayal. I was deceived and lost. I didn’t want to give up, so I crawled up again. Kikis.”

Biyemi smiled lightly, but that smile did not feel light. They could feel the assassin’s tenacity, which made the rankers in the top 100 tremble at least once.

Leeha could now understand why Biyemi, a magician, was so agile and skillful in his movements.

It must be because he had embodied the skills he had from the days he was a miyaw assassin, which could not be evaluated simply with stats.

Move-casting must also be one of the skills he had honed that way.

It was no wonder that he, who had already been in the ranks of the best, was leveling up at an unimaginable speed.

“Who are you going to get revenge? Now that you are a lizardia, revenge is-”

“This is still Middle Earth isn’t it? It is a world made by gamers. I naturally want to get my revenge on Petyr, and all the guys who gave me such a quest. I also participated in this royal palace quest in the hope that he would get involved. Fortunately, it was sooner than expected. Did all of you get the achievement?”

Biyemi exposed his teeth.

“What achievement? What achievement did you get?”

“Ha Leeha-nim got it too, but he is pretending not to know. It’s 『Midnight Circus’ Target』.”

“Ah, t-that. What should I say? Did all of you get it?”

“I didn’t!”

Ram Hwayeon exclaimed. On the other hand, Shin Nara and Tale nodded their heads.

“It might be because Petyr did not know Ram Hwayeon’s name. Me, Shin Nara-nim, and Tale-nim’s names should have appeared. And of course, halihali-nim, who dealt the final blow…”

“No, wait. He brought up revenge earlier. Bu the sudden mention of Midnight Circus-”

Shin Nara was naturally curious.

“He is the one I have to pay back. Just like Sacred Knights’ leader is an NPC, midnight Circus’ leader is also an NPC. He was the one who gave me and Petyr that quest.”

In other words, he promised to get revenge agains Middle Earth’s game system. Biyemi wanted to get revenge against the whole Midnight Circus.


“I will destroy them all. No matter how many comes. That’s how many I will kill.”

The lizardia’s voice spread gloomily.

It was as Biyemi said from the start.

The story related to Petyr, midnight Circus, and Biyemi was not a pleasant one.

Because it was related to the revenge of a user who got everything stolen from him.

After a small celebration(?) and talk in the conference room, everyone went back to their positions to stand guard again. Leeha went up to the central tower, which was his original spot, breathed in the night breeze and pondered Biyemi’s story.

‘As expected, Vietnamese people are persistent.’

This was a fact that could be seen by looking at the records of the Vietnam War.

Now he knew why he chose to be a ‘posion’-related job rather than a regular mage. It was because he knew it well, at the same time, it was to deal with Petyr.

‘There’s no way there’s a skill neutralization similar to poison. Oh, really.’

After all, he was no longer dependent on skills.

Most of his attacks were normal attacks. However, even Leeha cannot attack without skills.

Most importantly, in order to take advantage of sniping, he had to ‘see’ the target.

‘What if he wasn’t poisoned by Biyemi? I may have been able to do nothing against Petyr earlier. Because I won’t be able to see him. I must find a way to lift the darkness.’

The duration of mana clairvoyance was not that long.

The cooldown was relatively shot, however, what would be the point if it couldn’t be used at important moments. He should be able to spot enemies even in the dark.

Of course, there was an item that could do that in the real world.

‘Night vision……. I should find a way to recreate it in Middle Earth. And what next? Also.’

And next would be sight. The development of scope.

Right now, the end of the palace was barely visible using the Eagle’s Eye. If he couldn’t rely on Eagle’s Eye, it would take some time to aim.

‘If I could aim properly, I could hit. The I could instinctively feel the calculation of trajectory like I am breathing. But the invisible location is the problem.’

Even the 444m scope attached on the hummingbird was not enough. In the end, Biyemi’s obsession was supposed to be because of the 『Legendary』-grade item. The one that Leeha is currently using is the 『Legendary Black Bass』.

‘I should make a scope that is suitable to its rank.’

A scope that could cover the distance of 2000m is required.

‘I should also make a bipod that could remove the shaking when aiming.’

Although one hurdle had been crossed, Leeha felt deeply that there was still a long way to go.

He now had a lot of money he’s never had before, including his share on Dale Castle. However, should this money be spent on getting stronger?

In order to earn hospital expenses, which was Leeha’s original purpose, some of it would have to be exchange into real world money.

If so, what should he do to find the most efficient way of using the remaining funds?

As he went crazy with that thought, he remembered the unfamiliar object in his bag.

“Ah, right. Item!”

It was time to open Petyr’s second gift(?).

“As he is ranked 5th, he should have spent on expensive items.”

As he took out Petyr’s items from his bag, Leeha grumbled. He couldn’t find glamor in the item even if he washed his eyes. It was a bracelet made of twisted leather that had been maintained for a very long time.

It had a luxurious feel due to the unique subtle color of the leather, however, it did not look like an ‘expensive’ item. Of course, it was only what it looked like.

Leeha was looking forward to it even as he grumbled.

‘If it’s from an assassin, maybe it’s an agility item? Please be an agility item!’

『 Rare Bracelet Made of Algari Goat’s Leather』

Defense: 200

Effect: Marking Skill nullification, increase jumping power by 300%, agility +13

Requirement: Agility 700 or higher

Description: A bracelet made from the leather of Algari Goat that inhabits the highest highlands in the world. The reason why they haven’t gone extinct yet is because hunters have not been able to pursue them.

“Agility! ……But its rare. No, by the way, what is this rare item?!”

He thought it would be a special item, but it was rare. Leeha was a little disappointed at the low rating, but when he looked closely, he no longer was.

‘Marking nullification! It could be obtained from wandering merchants-’

A skill that marks the target’s location on the map, marking. If Leeha had not been able to kill Petyr, he would have been pursued by marking.

‘Now that I think about it, wouldn’t it have been better to put a mark on him and find out their stronghold? No, it would have been impossible in the first place’

If he did not die, he would have been wearing the bracelet. And marking would have been nullified.

He also like that its defense was 200, and it increased agility by 13, but the additional option piqued his interest.

‘Increase in jumping power…’

Does it mean literally jumping high and far? Did Middle Earth really need this kind of ability?

‘They’re assassins, there’s a lot of work that needed to climb over fortress walls…’

It was still better than nothing. Leeha wore the goat’s bracelet on his left arm. He somehow felt his knee joints getting stronger.

“A heroic-grade necklace, a rare-grade bracelet, a legendary weapon… and a worn-out coat.”

Leeha laughed at the unbalance items he wore. When will an alternative armor be available?

(To be continued…)
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Petyr’s sleeping gas also had the effect of erasing the victim’s memory. Because of that, the king, queen, and the two guards guarding the front of the bedroom did not remember anything last night.

However, it was important that the head of the guards personally identified the intruder’s body. Before clearly saw Petyr’s ashen-colored body disappear before it disappeared.

In other words, it was only natural to rush back to the palace as soon as the sun came up.

Fibiel’s king sat down with a very displeased expression. It was because Lotzac, which was supposed to be questioned, had not yet appeared.

‘Did he run away……? No, he won’t.’

Shin Nara waited impatiently and observed the king and the guard captain’s expressions.

After a while, the door opened and everyone’s eyes turned to the entrance. An old mage in a red robe walked slowly.

The haggard-faced old man walked weakly but did not forget to look at Shin Nara.

“Lotzac. How come you only came now?”

“I am extremely sorry. Your majesty. I was a little late because I had heard of last night’s ungodliness and was censoring the mages all night long.”

While Lotzac prepared to bow to the king, the guard captain’s face flushed red.

“What nonsense are you talking about, lord Lotzac! That’s not what you’re supposed to say right now! Last night, the royal mages’ trap did not work, his majesty almost-”

“That’s it, guard captain.”

“What?”

“The royal mages’ trap could be controlled by several other vice-leaders besides me. Even so, the final management is my responsibility. Even if a severe punishment is imposed on me, who almost caused harm to the safety of His Majesty, please listen to this.”

Lotzac knelt before the king.

Royal mages have one of the highest positions in the royal palace, except for the king.

In addition, there was no NPC that could push any further if a veteran of the second human-demon war came out like that. Even if it was the king.


‘I missed the timing…”

Shin Nara also bit her lips softly.

Lotzac lay flat on his stomach until the king allowed him to rise.

“……Speak.”

“After hearing the news, we confirmed who touched the trap by using the spirits. Perhaps the culprit believed in his own abilities, he carefreely slept in his lodging without leaving. Maybe he thought he wouldn’t get caught. So small number of mages captured him and tortured him all night to obtain confession a confession.”

Lotzac spat out those words as if he was sorry.

Seeing his trembling lips, Shin Nara felt like she was going to get nauseous.

“Lies! Did you check? Then there should be a record-”

“Dame Shin Nara, keep quiet. Keep talking, lotzac. What was his confession?”

The king stopped Shin Nara. The guard captain had a lot to say, however, when Shin Nara was stopped, there was nothing he could do.

“That bastard……. was a spy.”

“Spy? From where?”

The king’s eyebrows twitched. A spy or a mole. It meant a spy from another country.

Feeling the king’s breath, lotzac slowly timed his words.

He took enough time until the high-ranking officials, and the king felt impatient, so that they would accept his words without any doubt.

The royal mage chief, who excelled at magic, was also the best at penetrating people’s minds.

When the tension and impatience reached its peak, lotzac relented and gave strength to his voice.

“He confessed that he was a spy who infiltrated for seven years following Minis’ imperious order. Our enemy is Minis.”

“That’s nonsense!”

“Lord Lotzac! Is that for real?!”


“Ho, it’s Minis! Minis! Why did that name come out!” The faces of the officials as well as the guard captain, and the king changed.

Minis was a country that competed with Fibiel for supremacy in the continent. Their rivalry goes back even before the second human-demon war.

And Shin Nara, the only user attending, was well aware of that fact. When the NPC, lotzac, spoke like that to the king, who was also an NPC, how far would the incident go?

‘There is no way…’

What was the reason why Shin Nara went into trouble and suffered on this quest?. It was because the continent would fall into war if she made even one mistake.

It was because he was worried that users who hunt peacefully and enjoy adventures in Middle Earth would get caught up in the war and suffer damages.

‘However, lotzac’s words…….’

Shin Nara looked at Fibiel king’s trembling face. The king’s face was darker than ever.

“You have to take responsibility for that.”

“I would not lie about it. I can command the captured spy immediately, Your Majesty.”

Lotzac bowed opened his mouth and spoke toward the king again.

“Everything is my fault. Please punish me for not being able to prevent this from happening in advance. Please kill me for not serving Your Majesty faithfully!”

Lotzac slammed his forehead on the floor.

Bang, bang-!

Looking at the old man blaming himself, the officials’ expressions became worse.

“But if Duke Lotzac quits-”

“What if there’s a war with Minis?

The position of the chief royal mage, one of the pillars of Fibiel, is empty-”

“W-wait a minute- think about it-”

Looking at the NPCs, Shin Nara quietly closed her eyes.


I see. It was inevitable that it would turn like this.

‘Whether I succeed or fail the quest……

It was already set. Middle Earth’s main scenario couldn’t be stopped by one or two people’s efforts.

“Call the commanders of all armies, including the frontier.”

“Your majesty……”

The guard captain carefully asked. The king stood up from his seat with a solemn expression.

“Fibiel does not shy away from challenges-”

All the officials including Shin Nara bowed their heads toward the king.

Everything would be decided by his next words. And Shin Nara already predicted what those words would be.

“-Prepare for war.”

『The quest Uninvited Guest has ended.』

『Compensation will be paid according to the completio rate.』

『41 our of 50 days remained. Performance 82%』

『Intimacy with Fibiel’s royal family increased by 16%.』

『Intimacy with the Sacred Knights 100% is 100 percent. It could not rise anymore.』

『Fibiel Kingdom’s National Contribution + 164.』

Shin Nara looked at the notification window in front of her with her head bowed.

‘We only did the quest for 9 days. There are still 41 days left, but the completion rate is 82%……’

It was judged that the quest was performed according to Middle Earth’s ‘intention’. In other words, it meant that Middle Earth gave the quest aiming for the war between Fibiel and Minis kingdom from the very beginning.

‘Leeha-ssi…’

When her efforts to prevent the war resulted in hastening the war instead, Shin Nara could only hold back her tears

“Oh? What?”

A notification window appeared to everyone who were connected. Including Leeha, Ram Hwayeon, Tale, and Biyemi cleared the quest without knowing anything.

-Everyone, please gather, I have something to tell you.

And got a whisper from Shin Nara. When they gathered from all over the place, Shin Nara sat in the conference room with the face she had on the first day they had met. No, her face was even darker that from back then.

“Nara-ssi? Surely, this-”

“That’s right……. It’s over.”

“What do you mean it’s over? Do we no longer need to protect the king?”

“Yes. War is perhaps the real goal of this quest.”

It was to make Lotzac ignite the war.

Everyone’s eyes widened as Shin Nara revealed every detail of what had happened at the meeting.

In a way that they could not have imagined, lotzac preserved his position and at the same time started the war between Fibiel and Minis.

“T-then? The reason Lotzac commissioned Petyr- No, that was just a speculation, but this quet-”

“Was it like a trap? Did it end with Petyr’s death……?”

“The NPC that have a reputation no lower than the king had no intention of revealing the truth! Isn’t it like getting completely played by Lotzac?”

Everyone tried to complain one after the other, but it was already too late. The quest had already ended and disappeared, the war will come soon.

Ram Hwayeon was speechless because of how absurd the situation was, only Biyemi was able to laugh.

“Kikis, as I thought. There is not only one or two quest in Middle Earth that are like this. Obviously, this is a form of branching point, but the end result would not be stopped…. If we failed the quest, there still would have been war. Since the king is dead, would it have been in the form of an invasion from Minis? In any case, the Fibiel-Minis war was the planned setup. Middle Earth played out the board, and the content would be filled by the users! It’s a sign that they were to play over the heads of the users.”

“This is phase 2……”

Tale sighed as he heard Biyemi’s analysis.

The quest was clearly a success. Still, what was the dreadful feeling they felt? They did not like the fact that it did not say ‘quest completed’ on the notification window in the first place, what was written was ‘quest ended’.

“……This is unfair!”

Bang!

Shin Nara smashed the table in the conference room. Everyone was startled by the sudden noise.

“What?”

“I’m annoyed. Why did I have to suffer like this until now! I haven’t slept for a few days!”

“N-Nara-ssi?”

“Now that it is like this, I will crush it thoroughly. Middle Earth started a war? I will end that war in an instant.”

Shin Nara pulled out her sword and checked the condition of the blade. With an expression as if she was about to take the Minis king’s head at any moment.

Leeha, who was observing her mood that exuded ferocious energy, gulped.

“Ah! I’ll tell the second group when they arrive, but thank you for participating, and I’m sorry for the quest ending like this. You have had it rough…”

Shin Nara held back the ferocious energy in an instant and bowed her head towards the group.

“No worries. It was nice to learn a lot of things.”

“Kikis, the Midnight Circus’ Target achievement alone made it worth it.”

Tale and Biyemi smiled. Ram Hwayeon also increased her intimacy with the royal family, so it could be considered that she had obtained more than material support.

“Leeha-ssi wants to go to the royal archives, right? Come with me. I’ll tell the chief clerk.”

“P-Please put away your sword while saying that.”

Leeha had somehow become afraid of Shin Nara. And he was also worried about what position he should take in Middle Earth, which flowed in a completely unexpected direction.

“S-sorry, hon.”

“What?”

“Nothing. Uh, I’ll be back.”

“Huh? Ram Hwayeon-ssi? Why are you angry?”

Leeha tilted his head, however, Ram Hwayeon did not stop and walked out of the conference room.

“I should have recorded this too. Kikis.”

“I did. See you next time, Biyemi-nim. I will call Jachung-nim and Kay as well.”

Biyemi and Tale burst into laughter at the new look of Ram Hwayeon, whom they had known for the past few days.

(To be continued…)
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All the members of the first group departed, leaving only Shin Nara and Leeha in the Royal Palace. On the way to the Royal Archives, Shin Nara did not appear excited or happy at all, even though there were only two of them. Rather, she took a deep breath and exhaled so much that Leeha was worried about her.

“The war…… will I be able to stop it?”

“Perhaps.”

“Still, I-is it possible for a king to utter the word war without even doubting anything? Should we dig on Lotzac? Well, that confession might have been bloody anyway.”

That was the question that Leeha heard from Shin Nara. Why did the king make such a decision so quickly? Was it because an assassin broke in and tried to kill him? If that was the case, shouldn’t he be more suspicious of Lotzac who allowed the assassin to infiltrate?

From the beginning of the quest, lotzac had been more uncooperative than anyone else, and it was Lotzac who helped create the current situation.

‘War is not something that can easily be talked about, but… What’s more, it’s an all-out war, not a local one…’

Leeha knew because he was a former soldier. No, it was a fact that even non-military people knew.

“There won’t be a choice.”

“What?”

“Even the king wouldn’t be able to beat Lotzac easily. It’s hard to doubt that the leader of the royal mages caught the spy, and it would be difficult to use that as an excuse to hit Lotzac.”

“There’s no way the king would not have such power.”

“Huhu, of course, he has power. Although he looks funny to us, however, the king’s NPC setting is not funny. Perhaps his ambitions have been rekindled. I don’t know why, but Lotzac gave him the pretext of Minis, so he wanted to use that as an excuse as a stepping stone to aim for continental unification……. And if he takes Lotzac to the battlefield, he might be able to test Lotzac’s loyalty once more.”

“If he is suspicious-”

“His throat would get cut in a single stroke.”

“Hmmm…. There is some truth to it, but…… I don’t know if the king had thought that far ahead.”

However, Shin Nara’s words, who had played the longest and closest to the king, were somewhat credible.

“Anyway, there will be time until the war begins. The war-”


“I know, I know. No matter how Middle Earth is a game, they would go to war! And it would be impossible to start the next day. Even though I’m like this-……. Anyway, I know. Haha.”

“Even though you’re like this?”

“No, just. Well. Right. They still have to prepare, and it will still take a month no matter how fast they are. In the meantime, I should stock potions or something.”

Leeha wanted to say he used to be a soldier, but he looked down and suddenly closed his mouth. It was a thing of the past. Now, with a body that couldn’t even stand up, what should he do? Leeha quickly spoke.

“Hey, that’s a good idea. Isn’t it going to cost a lot of money? But don’t do it in the capital. It’s difficult to be in charge of the capital’s security.”

“Haha, I see! Now that I think about it, I think that might be the reason why Ram Hwayeon left first.”

War is money. A businessman would not miss it. However, she returned quickly because she smelled more than what Leeha had thought. When she heard the name Ram Hwayeon, Shin Nara’s expression changed strangely. Somehow, her face turned more and more anxious by the moment.

Was it because they were in front of the Royal Archives and it was now time to part with Leeha? Shin Nara asked,

“Are you close enough that you could ask each other for help?”

He thought it was funny. What was there to say about their relationship?

“Should I say that it started with a bad relationship in Candle Castle?”

Leeha looked like he was going to laugh, but Shin Nara’s expression turned upside down.

“Is that so? Is that all?”

“Yes. What more could it be?”

“By any chance- no, Leeha-ssi’s feelings-……“

“Feelings?”

“No! Nothing! Anyway, you don’t have any girlfriend, right?”

“Oh, ah? Girlfriend?”

Why did such a word come into the conversation?

Shin Nara’s face heated up slightly, and she was flustered at Leeha’s confused expression.


It was a situation which if Tale and Biyemi were there, they would giggle and start recording.

Rumble.

The door to the Royal Archives began to open. Yet, neither Shin Nara nor Leeha touched the crystal ball. The sound of footsteps came from the stairs in the crack in the wall.

“Well then, clark.”

And Shin Nara heard a familiar voice.

“Even if there’s a possibility. Don’t worry, lotzac-nim.”

The royal mage chief and chief secretary Clark came out of the Royal Archives. The four of them faced each other. Lotzac and Shin Nara stared at each other so intensely that one would think that fireballs would come out of their eyes.

“This, what happened that Dame Shin Nara is at the royal archives……? I thought you did not like reading.”

“You are still able to afford to joke, duke Lotzac. Even after committing such a sin.”

“I am deeply moved by His Majesty’s kindness, and I was given the opportunity to make up for my mistakes on the battlefield. However, I don’t want to hear the word ‘sin’ from a Sacred Knight who couldn’t even stop the intruder by herself and had to mobilize her colleagues.”

“What?”

Lotzac snorted and scolded Shin Nara.

“Besides, didn’t Dame Shin Nara not even notice to some extent? You knew in advance something that no one, including me and the guard captain, knew…. His Majesty might think it strange that you knew.”

Such sophistry should not exist.

It was so absurd that Shin Nara was speechless. It did not have any basis, so where did those words come from?.

“Where is that coming from! It’s Duke Lotzac whose behavior was strange from the start! Even if you are the leader of the royal mages, how dare you doubt me!”

Lotzac was also good at getting on people’s nerves. Even Leeha who was next to her got so annoyed that he wanted to intervene

“Well. I don’t know. It’s suspicious enough that some random people were called into the royal palace- hmm?”

Lotzac, who had said that, looked at Leeha.

“……Who are you?”


“Do I have the obligation to answer that……? I am one of the random people that Dame Shin Nara called.”

“This is the Royal Archives. No one without permission is allowed to enter.”

Leeha tried to make fun of Lotzac as well. Lotzac frowned for a moment.

 “Don’t worry about that, duke Lotzac. Because we already have the permit. Chief Secretary Clark, please check the documents.”

“T-That- Dame Shin Nara and Ha Leeha. It is written that the two of you are permitted.”

With the documents that Shin Nara gave him, clark looked at Lotzac’s eyes. He was merely a manager. If he received a permission letter with the king’s seal, he had no ability to refuse it.

“Are you saying that you are going to bring some random people to the Royal Archives right now, dame Shin Nara?”

“Why? Don’t you know who he is? This person worked day and night to rectify the ‘mistake’ that you made, duke Lotzac. He is someone that the royal family already knows. Don’t be rude.”

After the quest was over, the intimacy of the royal family increased. Shin Nara was definitely more adept at digging into Middle Earth’s system than Leeha. Especially in relation to NPCs, there was nothing to say.

“Shall we go, Leeha-ssi?”

“Yes. Clark-nim! Let’s go quickly.”

Leeha glared at Lotzac and urged Clark. Clark, who was restless, guided Shin Nara and Leeha.

Rumble–…… When the door of the Royal Archives closed, lotzac muttered softly..

“……Another one of the Three Musketeers.”

Flash, flash, flash. Three mana lumps were created around him. There was no casting or chanting. It was an incredible mana operation that could only be done by a mage leader, but no one saw it.

“Oh dear. I have to be patient. It’s easier to lose patience when you get older. Anyway, if I don’t…”

Suk-! And all the mana lumps fluctuated wildly and disappeared. Lotzac shook his head and walked away.

“Clark-nim, then, please.”

“Yes, well…… as Dame Shin Nara says so, I can do nothing about it. You have a permit…”

He glanced at Leeha and said he didn’t like it, but Clark still followed Shin Nara’s words. After following her down to the Royal Archives, she said hello to Leeha.

“Then, let’s go, Leeha-ssi.”

“Yes, thank you.”

“I have to say, this if it wasn’t for Leeha-ssi, the quest would have failed…. Thank you very much.”

“Ah, there’s no need for thanks. Between us.”

“Between us?”

“No, t-that, I meant as a member of Fibiel Kingdom?”

Shin Nara’s eyes widened, then drooped. Leeha just stammered and stuttered. As expected, when it came to talking to women, he was probably the shyest in all of Middle Earth.

“D-do you live in Seoul?”

“What? Yes.”

“Then next time……. If you have time, do you want to have a meal…?

“Oh, meal. You want to eat together?”

“I will treat you. You were there for me-”

Shin Nara blushed. It was the sound of her whispering, but it was clearly audible to Leeha.

‘This, is it a date? She wants to go on a date with me?’

Besides, she wanted to meet in the real world! Leeha wondered if this is what it felt when the heart is about to explode, however, it soon quickly cooled down. Even if he is a skilled musketeer with good limbs right now. But what about outside?

‘I couldn’t even get out of the wheelchair…….’

What would Shin Nara think of him? She was a former fencer who won a gold medal at the Olympics. What if he compared himself to other people who are healthier than him. Leeha’s spirit somewhat dampened.

“It’s okay, but…. I don’t think it would be possible for a while.”

“Okay……. Well, you must be busy. I’m sorry for saying something weird! Please call me again next time!”

“N-Nara-ssi! Nara-ssi!” Shin Nara ran up the stairs without looking back The sad expression she showed at the end was deeply etched in Leeha’s heart.

‘Shit!’

Did the fact that his body is broken undermine his confidence? Leeha blamed himself even more. However, it is not a situation that would improve if he got frustrated.

‘I should earn money faster. More. More!’

The 『Legendary Black Bass』 should not be taken lightly. If couldn’t even earn 2 billion won with such a weapon, he’d be a fool.

“Clark! Please take me to the bookshelf of the second human-demon war.”

“Oh! I was told by Dame Shin Nara, but-”

“Quickly. Take me there.”

“一Such…. word*“…. Cough, follow me. R-relax your eyes-“… Clark took a quick look into Leeha’s eyes and turned his head. He couldn’t make eye contact with Leeha, who had an expression on his face that seemed to indicate that he would get hurt if he talked back.

(To be continued…)
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“W-well then, tell me when you want to leave.”

Clark looked away from Leeha’s eyes, the seemingly endless bookshelves would have been daunting for others, but Leeha did not get intimidated. (suggestion “daughting to others”)

‘What I need to find is a clue to the direction in which the Demon King’s army disappeared. There’s no need to look at the data from the early days of the 2nd human-demon war.’

These are the things Leeha skimmed through. It should be in the records of the final battle that took place in the Marching Plains.

‘There were 33 scrolls of reports for only one battle. Let’s look at it from here first.’

He scrolled through one scroll after another to gather information. He quickly found information about that fierce battle. After the battle was over, a series of information for collecting the dead bodies, evacuating the wounded, and sending a small number of pursuers in the direction of the Demon King’s retreating army to finish off the rest.

‘I found it.’

Leeha found one sentence in this sea of messy scrolls.

『The Demon King’s army retreated toward the strait between the Kraven Kingdom and the Fibiel Kingdom. Kraven’s navy broke through the besieged sea.』 『Through the collaboration of the Serpent and the Kraken, who survived during the second human-demon war, Kraven’s navy was defeated, and the main force of the surviving Demon King’s army went to the Sea of Dawn.』

『Fibiel’s high-speed ship tried to pursue them, but without Kraven Navy’s assistance, it was judged that it would be impossible to pursue – Additional testimony.』

‘Sea of Dawn. It is in the east, where the sun rises. Did they cross the sea? No, besides that, if it’s the sea-’

Leeha opened the quest window. In addition to Browless’ quest, he also had another quest. Right here!

‘Fernand! The quest to find a new continent!’

The user called the Pioneering King! He had a quest to bring the man who only explored the unexplored areas.

『New Land in the Sea of Dawn』 Description: Arrive at Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel Kingdom, with Fernand Reward: Participation in the New Continent Expedition Fleet, Fibiel National Contribution +50

Condition for Failure: Fernand’s participation in another country’s expedition.

It was said that Fibiel is not the only one desperate to find Fernand, other countries as well. His help was essential to finding a new continent.

‘The fact that he still had not failed the quest… meant that no one found Fernand……. Does it become like this if a user decides to hide? As long as he didn’t go through all the unexplored frontiers with absolutely no information.’


Leeha’s chances of meeting Fernand were close to zero.

‘Did the low-leveled ones skip it because they were afraid of areas without information on what danger lies ahead? And the high-leveled ones didn’t want to bother wasting time looking for him?’

Leeha was curious. The direction in which the Demon King’s army disappeared was east, beyond the Sea of Dawn. And the place Fernand wanted to go to was the east, a new continent beyond the Sea of Dawn. In addition, fernand said that he was attacked almost as soon as he reached the New Continent.

‘Surely……’

What was in (suggestion “on”) that continent that had not yet been touched by humans? An ominous thought crossed Leeha’s mind. Once he judged that Browless’ quest requirements have (suggestion “had”) been met, Leeha decided to look for additional testimonies.

‘If I want to go to the new continent, I need to know what’s in the sea-’

There was nothing wrong with knowing what kind of attack there was in advance in order to prepare for when he would be included in that fleet. However, the additional testimonies presented to him were ridiculous.

-The distance from the Demon King’s army is about 5 nautical miles, a distance that could be followed by a high-speed boat, however, the head of the helmsman exploded with a strange noise.

-A mana wave was not detected, and any search magic, including using detection, did not result in finding any abnormalities in the surrounding areas.

-Another personnel was entrusted with the steering but his head also exploded. The distance was already 6 nautical miles.

– Wood elves guessed that the ‘Arcane Sniper’ was included among the troops of the retreating Demon King’s army. It was judged that it was impossible to continue pursuing.

“What is this?”

Why did the word ‘Arcane Sniper’ appear here? Besides, the testimony was absurd. 5 nautical miles is equivalent to 9.6km, and 6 nautical miles is more than 11km!

‘Someone aimed for a headshot at the distance of 10km or more, and it was successful……?’

It’s not even on flat land, but on the sea with raging waves, on a ship? The 『Legendary Black Bass』 was a sniper rifle with tremendous destructive power. However, at this moment, Leeha had no choice but to shake his head. It was impossible to even aim in that situation, let alone thinking of hitting the target.

‘If it’s real, that would be insane. No matter how good the sniper rifle is, it’s impossible. If the real world’s standard is taken into account, aiming at 10km, wouldn’t that mean that you also had to take the curvature of the earth into account…?’ But this was Middle Earth, there were records of it being done. He did not want to give up on the field of sniping, even if he had to give up on other fields.

‘However…… it is possible here?’

An immediate task roughly came to Leeha’s mind. Anyway, after the incident with Petyr, he had something to think about. Leeha took the necessary information and left the Royal Archives.

***

“I’m back, director-nim.”


“Hmm. Welcome back.”

Browless was leisurely drinking tea. It was a natural reaction for the NPC who was not yet aware of what was going on in the royal palacw.

“I have the information you had asked me last time.”

“……It must be about the Demon King.”

“Yes. And I have something else to tell you.”

If he wanted to get an additional hint about Lotzac, it would be better to tell Browless about everything. Leeha talked about the king’s attempted assassination which started with Shin Nara’s quest, the situation of being on the brink of war against Minis, and the traces of the Demon King’s army.

“It’s Lotzac again……”

“Yes. He is suspicious, but we don’t have any evidence, so even the Sacred Knights couldn’t do anything about him.”

“Because he is a very thorough man. Well said, Leeha-kung I will have to contact the royal palace myself.”

He was a member of the Three Musketeers. He was in a shabby academy now, but if a war really starts, he will soon be summoned anyway. He also understood Leeha’s intention to prepare ahead of time.

“And about the Demon King’s army.”

“Yes.”

“I guess this is the last thing I need to talk about.”

“If it’s the last…”

『Arcane Sniper』.”

『You have completed the quest ‘Traces of two people-1’.』

『Traces of two people – 2』

Description: Brown, elizabeth, and I enjoyed hearing the stories of the 『Arcane Sniper』. As a person who used the musket, how could we not be swayed by the statement ‘He didn’t miss his target no matter how far away’. However, that statement is a bit strange. Why did the Arcane Sniper, who had no story throughout the second human-demon war, only appear while they were retreating? First, investigate the legend. If 『Arcane Sniper』 is really in the Demon King’s army, they cannot be traced hastily.’

Browless is concerned with the title ‘Arcane Sniper’. He wants you to investigate the existence of the legend.

Requirement: Obtain the information of 『Arcane Sniper』 from the dark elves


Reward: Quest- Traces of two people-3

-Do you accept?

“It was……from a legend?”

Leeha carefully examined the quest window. The legend of Arcane Sniper…. He had to look it up himself. It was the nickname given to him after the guild war between Hwahong and Byulcho. There was no way he would not be interested. 

‘In the real world, it is the name of an opera.’

Does Middle Earth have a different legend?

“Yes. That’s what we heard too. The one who handles the power of the devil who won the battle against God, arcane Sniper.”

“Battle against God……”

“It’s funny. Because it isn’t a human legend in the first place.”

“If it’s not from humans-”

“Dark elves. A legend of a cursed race. Unlike the wood elves, who received the divine power, the dark elves are said to have received magical power from 『Arcane Sniper』 and this was the story of the birth of their race. The legend of the 『Arcane Sniper』 is from the first dark elf.”

“Right.”

Was it related to the elves this time? In the last sentence, he also saw. The person who testified that it was Arcane Sniper who had the power to accurately pierce the target at a distance of more than 10km was a wood elf. Can the wood elves feel the power of dark elves?

“Find a dark elf somewhere on the continent and gather information about 『Arcane Sniper』. How did the legend come about, and whether there actually was a 『Arcane Sniper』 in the second Human-Demon war.”

If there was an entity that could snipe from 10km away, they would not have the ability to chase him. Before you could even feel their presence, they would have already put a hole in your head. Browless didn’t want to lose the next generation of the Three Musketeers.

“How do I find a dark elf? Will they talk to me? If it’s a cursed race-”

“They are not really friendly with humans. Their residence is also unknown. It will not be an easy task.”

“What?”

“Please.”

“Oh?”

Is it like this again? However, Browless expression changed into a look of deep agony again. Find and obtain information about a race that is not friendly with humans, with their locations unknown, are cursed, and may have been on the side of the Demon King’s army during the second human-demon war…….

‘I don’t even think James Bond could do it either.’

Leeha knew it anyway. That no matter what he did, he wouldn’t be able to turn it back. Leeha quietly left the academy. On one hand, it was also a reassuring quest.

‘Arcane Sniper started to be mentioned directly. I must have caught up to Kidd and Luger to some extent.’

Did the two of them progress in this quest already? Have they met a dark elf? Even if Leeha asked, they wouldn’t give an answer.

“Well, they’re not the only one I could ask.”

Leeha could go to Holy Grill – capital branch.

‘Before that……. I’ll sort out the stats and get some sleep.’

He must have been connected for more than 36 hours. Leeha opened his character window.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 159 (0%) Title: Fearless / Achievement: 49

HP: 4,390(3,073) / MP: 1,145 Stats: Strength: 205(+148)

Agility: 1,419(+347)

Intelligence: 129(+78)

Constitution: 145(+52)

Mind: 40(+30)

Remaining Stat Points: 72

“Keu. This is it.” ( I’m not really sure what this means, is he trying to complain?)

Midnight Circus’ Target and Ranker Hunter, and two level ups, 72 stat points in total.

‘The Black Bass’ recoil is fatal. In particular, the shaking is especially strong when it is fired in a row.’

Leeha thought of his fight against Petyr in the Royal Palace’s garden. As an assassin ranked 5th in the global ranking, his movements were unpredictable, and the light suddenly disappeared so his eyes could not see, but the recoil could not be ignored either. 

‘I have to allocate a little to strength. Of course, agility comes first but…… He needed to be able to bear the weight. Leeha allocated 25 points in strength, and 47 points in agility.

“Now I have 230 strength and 1,466 agility. Good. And before going to bed-” Leeha stopped at the auction house. Most of the items obtained from the field bosses while trying to get the ‘One shot, one kill’ achievement was put up in the auction house.

After collecting the money, including the profits he received from Ram Hwayeon for having a share in Dale Castle, Leeha now had an unimaginable amount of money.

‘This……’ I need to take some calming medicine before I send this to my mother’s bank account. Leeha left Middle Earth feeling like he would have a good dream. (To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

I have explained it before, the title of the novel in Korean is 마탄의 사수 read as Arcane Bullet-ui Sasu. When translated to German is Der Freischütz, and in English is ‘The Marksman’.

It’s an opera about a magic gun/musket that has 6 bullets, 5 bullets will hit whoever the user aims for, and the last bullet will be controlled by the devil.

Here’s a wikipedia article about it:

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Der_Freisch%C3%BCtz
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“Hmm…… Yes?”

“Wake up! What are you doing sleeping all day? You were sleeping when I went to work, and you’re still sleeping now?”

“……It’s already been so long?”

He was so tired that he wanted to stretch, but Leeha didn’t want his mother to see it.

Leeha opened his eyes, barely chasing away his tiredness.

If he had slept for nearly twelve hours, it meant that 2 and a half days would have already passed in Middle Earth.

“Yes. Hurry up and eat, I bought your favorite jowl meat~ Shall we have a cup of Soju together as well?”

“Wow?! With alcohol? Did anything good happen?”

His mother hardly ever drank alcohol, but she used to buy some on special occasions. Besides, there was jowl meat! To Leeha, who rarely went out after the incident, it was very special meat.

“Today is my payday.”

“Still, I guess the ajumma didn’t take it and gave it to you? When you look at what she usually says, her personality is a little-”

“Hey, don’t say that. Even if she is a bit naggy, she gives me my pay on time. Wash up and get ready to eat, I will grill the meat.”

“I understand, omma! Oh, I also have money coming in today. Should I send it to your account?”

Leeha made an exaggerated gesture and asked his mother.

To others, he is a 32-year-old, but to his mother, he is still a child. And Leeha knew that his mother treats him more like a ‘baby’. He was embarrassed about it, but if this type of aegyo is filial piety, then he needs to do his duty.

“What money is coming in again?”

“It’s that, the money from the game I play.”

“Hmm, okay. Omma will take care of it. We will use it to pay for your treatment.”


“Okay, do you want a surprise?”

“What surprise? Do you have any surprises?”

“No, no, no. Okay, then please prepare the meal first!”

Leeha pulled his wheelchair and went to prepare the table. And while his mother was grilling the meat, he connected to the internet and looked for gold trading partners.

‘Amazing.’

The gold that was difficult to obtain in Middle Earth could be traded in all currencies around the world

In addition, ‘gold’ was linked with an account within Middle Earth, allowing immediate transactions.

‘In the case of items, I have to log on to a separate site to post and sell-’

Gold getting connected to an account meant that he didn’t need access to the game to find a transaction target on the internet. The demand was always high….

『The transaction has been completed.』

『The transaction has been completed.』

『The transaction has been completed.』

“This much is enough, right?”

Leeha sold the gold with a happy heart. Of course, he kept some for himself.

For various quests to be done in the future, even if his funds were overflowing, when calculating the cost of the expensive legendary class 『Black Bass』, it always felt insufficient.

‘And while the meat is being grilled~’ Leeha searched for information about Fernand. A user who did not receive whispers. What should he do to meet him?.

‘He is not a man that could be looked down on. It means that he is a player on the level of Shin Nara or Petyr.’

He had no such thing as a title, but Middle Earth’s system created a quest for the user named Fernand.

The information on the internet made Leeha even more confused.

‘They saw the Pioneering King in the Freeca Forest…. The Pioneering King is in the Zaire Hill…. The Pioneer King appeared in Para Simak…. What is this?’


They were posted at the same time, but they are all in different places. The areas weren’t even close to each other.

『Title: The Pioneering King is good at fishing!』

I’m a wanderer that walks through unexplored areas, but does levelers as you see?LOLOLOL Just look in the mirror

-ㅇㅈ Those who don’t even know the face of the Pioneering King are going crazy

‘Ah…… are they all just clickbaits?’

After reading the article, Leeha was able to find out the true nature of the articles that were popular. The world is wide and it is filled with bored people. And there was no way that Middle Earth’s information could be easily obtained through the internet. Also, information about such a mysterious person is even rarer.

“Son! Let’s eat!”

“Yes, I’m coming!”

After preparing for the big meal, Leeha took up a cup of soju and offered it to his mother.

“Please take this.”

“Are you in a good mood today too?”

“I am always in a good mood.”

After watching his mother drink her soju, Leeha picked up his smartphone.

‘If mother sees this, she might pass out.’

And Leeha quickly completed the transfer.

“Omma, you got a message.”

“Huh? We’re eating, who’s messaging me?”

Mumbling, his mother picked up her phone.

Leeha quietly turned on the recording and filmed his mother. To capture the moment- And then, his mother stopped and her nose flared, and her eyes widened.

“T-This? What is this? Pffp-！”


“Uwah! Ah, omma! Why are you so surprised.”

“S-Sorry. By the way, this money……”

He fully understood why his mother stuttered and scattered her food.

“It’s just like that. Would you like another drink?”

He even had another bottle of soju. He watched as his mother got up and came with a large glass.

“I can’t do it with that cup. Pour it in this one.”

His mother poured so much soju in the glass that he could hear the sound of her drinking it in one go. Glug glug glug-! Leeha looked at her with a puzzled expression, but from his mother’s point of view, this was worth the celebration.

『Hanil Bank』12/04 20:15

097601**334**48

Ha Leeha

Electronic Transfer: 108,150,000

Balance: 119,775,130

Leeha had 1,481 gold in total, set aside 500 gold, and sold the rest.

981 gold was exchanged for cash and the amount less the transfer fee was 18.15 million won.

“It’s a pre-Christmas present. I will give you as much as possible on Christmas day.”

Tears flowed down from Leeha’s mother’s eyes and flowed down her cheeks.

“Hey, if you cry while drinking, then we won’t be able to eat together.”

Leeha wiped his mother’s tears, but couldn’t stop them from flowing from her eyes.

“Y-your legs…… Leeha……

“Do not worry. At this time next year at the earliest……. We can go to Germany together. Omma. you said you never went abroad before.”

Leeha’s mother cried tears of joy and relief. As he hugged his weeping mother, a sense of pride bloomed in Leeha’s heart.

With the current rate, he was earning. If he could just earn a little bit more, and get a little more stronger, then how much could he shorten it?

Of course, the reason they had to go to Germany was not for a vacation. It would be to go to a hospital for Leeha’s treatment.

Leeha smiled hoping for a happy future.

‘If you laugh and cry, big things will happen…… Why is my butt suddenly getting itchy?

‘Phew, 500 gold!

Good, good.”

When Leeha connected to Middle Earth, whispers from several people came. The second group, who joined the quest and finished later than Leeha wanted to hear about the additional details.

Leeha explained the situation to Kijung and Jachung, and headed to the Holy Grill.

“Vodka martini, shaken, not stirred.”

“Follow me.”

Leeha was guided to Madam Ju through the crowd of the Holy Grill that was still bustling.

Contrary to the peaceful atmosphere on the floor, there was a sense of tension in the room with Madam Ju.

“What’s going on?”

“Huh, Ha Leeha-ssi, is it really happening?”

“What?”

Leeha tilted his head, and Madame Ju narrowed her eyes as she looked at Leeha.

“I thought we were special companions.”

“T…… That’s right. Well, it’s not just you.”

“Are you telling me that you did not intend to tell us about the war? Do you know how serious this is for our Intelligence Guild?”

It was only then that Leeha sensed Madame Ju’s aura.

What was the reason for Ram Hwayeon to return to Dale Castle in a hurry, even Shin Nara and Leeha were moving together?

It was because war-related secrets can have various preemptive effects the sooner they are obtained.

“A-ahh! Have you heard it already? I was just about to tell! Oh no, I’m a step late.”

The information guild was surely fast. It’s a matter of course though. Leeha quickly sat down with Madam Ju.

“Hmm, I have already heard of it long ago! Besides that, it is said that something happened in the royal palace? A spy from Minis snuck in and tried to assassinate the king. There were even rumors that Ha Leeha-ssi stopped it.”

The achievement went to the person who caused the greatest damage up to their death

In other words, the fact that Leeha won the achievement of Ranker Hunter – Petyr meant that he actually blocked the assassination.

He received Biyemi’s help, but Madam Ju’s words were not wrong. Of course, but Leeha didn’t readily acknowledge it.

“What did I stop! Thanks to Madame Ju, who informed Shin Nara, we were able to do this and that. Nara-ssi wants to give you her thanks.”

“Anyway……. This is no better than a betrayal.”

“Please don’t say that. Now that I have gained some royal intimacy, I will let you know as soon as there is anything that will help the intelligence guild next time.”

“Really?”

“Of course! Instead… Please take a look at this.”

Only then did Leeha bring up the main point. Two pieces of advanced information that cannot be obtained online.

“What?”

“I need to find a man named Fernand. And the base of the dark elves.”

“Fernand…… The Pioneering King?”

“You know about him?”

“I know him. Thanks to that person, the leader is making a killing. But now, he’s a bit hard to find… That’s right.”

“Huh? Why?”

“We need to prepare for war. Besides, we would need to search all over the continent to find Fernand, and it would be difficult with the shortage of manpower.”

Information related to the enemy country will be sold to the Royal Palace at a high price. In other words, the Intelligence guild had no other choice but to put all their resources there.

Thanks to Leeha, they were able to set up this store, but it was too big to even call it a bleeding service. Leeha grasped Madame Ju’s intentions and his bargaining skill was activated quickly.

“Still! If the Intelligence Guild couldn’t do that-”

“It’s unexplored, but he’s a wanderer. We have our own difficulties too. However, I will let you know as soon as information about the pioneering king comes in from another city.”

“Phew,…. How much do I need to give you?”

“Sorry. I didn’t want to say this to Ha Leeha-ssi either.”

“I see alright……. Then, tell me about the dark elf base. For free.”

Leeha lowered his head with a sad expression as much as possible. And spat that out as if it was natural.

“Hmm?”

“Hehe, you know? Our special relationship, madam Ju-nim?”

She tried to get information from Leeha about the royal palace, but now their position were reversed.

“……You’re truly a sly one.”

Madam Ju looked at Leeha and shook her head. Leeha smiled while unfolding his map.

(To be continued…)

TL’s corner:

I think a lot of things are about to happen. hmmmm. 
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‘It was a place where not even the Intelligence Guild could reach……

The area that Madame Ju mentioned naturally did not appear on Fibiel Kingdom’s map.

Anyway, the fact that a dark elf was found somewhere nearby was all the information the Intelligence Guild could get.

It seems that they really were hiding among the humans. In addition, even if he found the dark elves, he didn’t expect that he could enter their village.

‘If a person did not have any intimacy with them, they would not even talk…… no, wasn’t it said that you would be lucky if you didn’t get attacked? There’s a reason why the location of their village has not been revealed yet.’

Even if someone approached it by chance, they would have been killed by the dark elf sentries without even knowing how they died.

It must have been difficult for some of the ‘lost users’ to deal with the cursed clan that had abilities that surpassed all NPCs.

‘It would have been nice if they had died and figured out the identity of their attackers. Like elves, they focus on ranged attacks. As they were killed by a headshot or critical hit, the victims did not know what kind of monster had killed them.’

Judging from what he heard from Madam Ju, the area presumed to be the base of the Dark Elves was considered a ‘place to avoid’.

However, it was not possible for Leeha with his current situation!

Unless he happens to meet a dark elf somewhere in the human city, he must find that village.

‘The place I have to go to is the Siand Frontier.’

It was once an unexplored land, but after being discovered by the pioneer king, it is now a small town where merchant NPCs have begun to establish themselves.

A land that does not belong to any country.

Specifically, the region beyond the Adamantine Mountains. It meant that it was a lawless area where you shouldn’t expect security.

“Phew, still, it’s not a big deal. It is what it is I guess.”

Leeha looked at the magazines for the Black Bass.

At first, he thought that 100 shots were enough, but he used around 40 shots as he went through practice shooting, field boss hunting, and on the Royal Palace escort.


It was not a good idea to enter a lawless area with only around 60 bullets.

‘I still have one brass ingot. I have to go to Adamantine anyway, so I should stop by Hell Anvil first.’

It was different from when he went with Jin Gonggong.

10 seconds after he tore a scroll, Leeha arrived at Hell Anvil.

“Looking for people going to the Ironwood area! Whether gathering iron ore or leveling up, everyone is welcome~”

“Selling iron ingots, cheaper than the market price! Selling iron ingots, buying silver ingots!”

“Is there anyone who can make silver platings that are cheaper than the dwarves? ㅠ.ㅠ.”

Small users, small NPCs, and noises made by large users. Leeha liked the unbalanced atmosphere.

The first place he went to was, of course, the Bottleneck Blacksmith.

His goal was to obtain bullets, but it was also a store that specialized in making small tools. Leeha had another idea

“Hello”

Clang, clang, clang-.

A hammer flew over an anvil, and thick glass melted from the fire. The movements of the dwarves who were making all kinds of items stopped for a moment.

“This voice-”

“-Surely?”

The Beard Brothers were now familiar with Leeha’s voice.

“I’m here to make a request-”

“Boss! Boss! He’s here!”

“The devil is here!”

The dwarves threw what they were working on and ran inside. After a while, Bottleneck rushed out and pointed at Leeha with shaking hands.


“You, you! Why are you here?!”

“Why did I come again? Of course, I’m here for morebullets. Is the price the same as last time? Here’s a brass ing-”

“Oh……

In the hometown of the dwarves, other users were bound to suffer. However, the dwarves who had never encountered someone as shameless as Leeha could not stand him.

“Ah, and I have one more request.”

“What?”

Bottleneck picked up the brass ingot.

He complained, but there was a reason why he could not refuse. The ammunition for 『Black Bass』 was irresistibly substantial.

Leeha waited for Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers to calm down after saying his piece

“I want to make an item called scope and night vision.”

“Scope?”

“Night vision?”

“Yes. So this-”

Leeha took off the scope that was attached to the Hummingbird-pistol and handed it to Bottleneck. Although they had wary expressions on their faces, the dwarves were certainly craftsmen.

Their curiosity could never be suppressed!

“Hmm, is it comparable to clairvoyant magic? If it is made by using a lens. Then knowledge on optics would be needed .”

Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers fumbled through the scope and quickly analyzed it.

“Of course, what I am asking for is something more advanced than that. The magnification should be adjustable from low to high, so the lens diameter should be large, and most importantly, the Elevation Adjustment and Windage Adjustment should be possible. The interval per click should be 26, so it can be used as a long-range scope-”

“W-wait, wait! Wait! What are you even saying?”

As expected, they did not understand.


The scope attached to the Hummingbird was a 444m dedicated scope.

It was made using Dale Castle’s resources and from the help of the NPCs, but was closer to a 444m fixed target telescope than a sniper scope.

‘I shouldn’t be the one developing it this time. If I think about the future, I have no choice but to do it this way.’

Just looking at the quest the 『Black Bass』 gave him.

Right after clearing the first quest to hit a target from 1000m, it was now 1,500m. To clear it, Leeha needed a real sniper scope.

As good as the real deal, no, with a magnification, caliber, and precision that exceeded the real thing.

“Cough……. So……”

Looking at Bottleneck and Beard Brothers with blank expressions, Leeha felt uncomfortable. He would need to explain the concept of what scope is first.

“Bring me some paper. I will explain it to you guys.”

After that, Leeha lectured them for a long time. The three dwarves sat down, diligently writing down all of Leeha’s explanations.

“-That’s about it. Did you understand?”

“You are talking about a device that, even when the distance increases, it can position the target within the scope and adjust the distance between the muzzle and the scope in order to aim, right?”

“That’s right. Horizontally, and vertically.”

“Hmmm, I get it, but it won’t be easy. Besides, you want something that could aim for more than 1,500m right? If that’s the case, it’s something that can’t be made with a normal lens. You’ll need a lens that’s taller than your height, to collect light and project the image.”

The dwarves were smarter than they looked

They also had the dexterity to create frames and shapes if they knew its structure.

However, it seemed that the fundamental difference in technology was difficult to overcome.

“The Beard Brothers are right. Besides, what about the scaling? Moving while controlling the amount of light is impossible with just a few lenses. If I made it, would it be the same size or larger than that cursed rifle? It’s impossible to have eyes like that unless you’re an eagle or a hawk! Think about why God didn’t give us those eyes!”

Bottleneck shook his head and even raised it.

“Then what if I bring you an eyeball similar to that of an eagle or a hawk? Can you do something about it?”

“T-this guy! You just said something ridiculous, what a joke! If there was, then why didn’t you say it earlier! Do you want the lens to have a larger aperture? A bird’s eyes might be able to take it, but ours can’t. It’s because our eyes cannot receive the light received by the bird’s optic nerve.”

So what was the way? If it was anyone else they would have said., ‘Is that so?’ And they would have just given up.

But, it was in Leeha’s nature to make do if there really was no other way.

However, the scope was an irreplaceable item. Leeha’s eyes were better than average, however, if the target exceeded 1,000m away, it was a necessity.

He must have a better scope.

“It is useless to have the eyes of other creatures. Few creatures can see that far. Eagles, hawks, birds of prey in the sky, etc.

-”

“-Or even monsters with big eyes, boss.”

“Yeah, that’s right.”

Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers nodded with an expression of victory. He suddenly thought of them as people who enjoyed solving problems.

“A monster with big eyes?”

“That’s right. And you can’t just make your eyes bigger. We need to make a few lenses, so we need to have a few big eyes- most importantly, the monster has to primarily use its eyes.”

“Like Quiquero?”

“Quiquero! Haha, no matter how brilliant you are, why are you bringing up Quiquero’s name? The eyes of the great cyclops, the ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, all the way to the Adamantine-.”

“Here it is.”

Leeha took out an item.

It was big enough to fill a large garbage bag. He didn’t put it in the auction house because he wanted to use it somewhere else.

“……What is this?”

“Is this a 『Cyclops Crystal』?”

It looked like material for something, so it was a waste to sell it in a store, and it was not listed in the auction house, so it did not have a market price.

“……Why is this here……?”

“If it’s this size, can you cut it without needing more of it? Ah, how much is it?”

Leeha had 500 gold spare funds, but that did not mean he could just splurge all his money away!

“……Dear Anvil God……”

『Bargaining skill activated.』

『The chance of persuading the target increases by 38%.』

“Would it be better if I paid for it now or when I come to pick it up?”

Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers shuddered.

(To be continued…)
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After closing Bottleneck’s door, Leeha left Hell Anvil. They said that it would take several days to make 100 new rounds and the scope.

‘I’ll have to go to the Siand Frontier and save the location there.’

He bought a map from the general store in Hell Anvil.

If was fortunate for Leeha that a lot of map makers had already visited Siand Frontier.

Still, it would be quite a difficult adventure to travel such a considerable distance.

“Okay, then…”

Leeha walked out of Hell Anvil.

In the beginning, there were roads to a certain extent thanks to the users that went hunting or entered the mine, but after walking for about an hour, that too disappeared.

Now, there were only wild paths that dwarves, and wild beasts passed through.

“Oink, oinkl!”

“Snort, snort–!”

When Leeha heard the sound of monsters in the Middle of Adamantine Mountain, he quickly crouched and hid. And quietly took out the 『Black Bass』 from its leather case.

‘The recommended hunting level for a party of 4 is 170, however……”

Leeha placed the muzzle of Black Bass on a small rock.

The direction was from top to bottom. In the mountain range where there were not many trees in the middle, there was nothing that could particularly block his sight.

Click, he pulled the bolt and reloaded.

“Oink, oink-!”

“Snort, snort!”


He saw two wild boars made of rocks. It was a monster that was far superior to the stone golem in terms of speed, pattern, and health.

“Phew..”

Leeha carefully timed the moment when their snorting lined up–Click. He pulled the trigger.

Gunshot resounded from the Adamantine Mountain as the bullet hit the head of the stone boar in the front and the buttocks of the stone boar at the back!

Crack- He saw them break.

“Did it pierce them? Huh.”

Leeha carried the 『Black Bass』 on his shoulder and ran happily. However, only the first boar’s head was pierced, and not the second one.

“This…”

But both of them died due to Leeha’s ridiculous damage.

In fact, just piercing one and giving the other a shock was already amazing. However, Leeha was not satisfied.

‘I can’t even pierce two stone monsters. Even though Luger’s shot has the 『Accuracy』 effect at a certain distance…. it didn’t lose the power of 『Pierce』.’

But what about Leeha’s bullets? At this level, if Luger wanted to defend, he would be able to. He also wanted to have the 『Pierce』 effect, but his bullets were bound to basic limitations.

“Well, it’s because the attack is strong. I have to be satisfied with this for now.”

After checking his experience in the character window, Leeha decided to efficiently hunt on his way to Siand Frontier.

They gave a good amount of experience, but if he could catch two in one shot, there was no reason to waste bullets.

“Now, one shot, one kill is not worth it anymore, let’s go for one shot, two kills! Mana Clairvoyance！”

Shiing-.

Leeha saw a strange thing as he scanned all the stone boars of the Adamantine Mountain.

‘……What is that?’

It was a tree with a higher body temperature than the rest. There was a warmth on the tree that should have never appeared. Leeha quietly pulled the bolt.


It wasn’t even one tree. There was one about twenty steps from Leeha, and three about three to four steps from there.

It meant that ‘mana’ flowed from as many as four trees.

“Cough, where is that monster~? I need to get that stone boar.”

Leeha looked around and slowly took a step back. It was not normal. It was not even a monster either. Besides, he already experienced it once.

To be in such a ridiculous state..

It was about an hour away from Hell Anvil, so it was a place with no users around.

He didn’t know how they got here, but it immediately occurred to him that they were experts and must have done something. Leeha also thought that it might be because of the achievement he got.

Leeha, who took a step backward, quickly knelt down on one knee and held the 『Black Bass』 up.

Then, he fired at the tree in front of him!

—!

“Come out, you bastards!!!”

As the bullets pierced through the trees, red blood gushed out into the air along with the gunshot. The tree slowly began to change into a human form, and soon a gray corpse dropped to the ground.

“Matt-ssi got caught!”

“He detected us, release your skills! Let’s all charge at him!”

In an instant, the shape of the other trees where mana flowed disappeared. It was an instant, but Leeha still saw it. The moment when the bare trees changed into the form of assassins with their arms raised high in the sky.

“Kuhu, hihihihi!”

“Leeha, Leeha!”

All three of them wore clown makeup and ran with strange laughter. As soon as he noticed that it was a transformation skill, Leeha knew who they were..

“Damn it, has it begun already?!”

Midnight Circus! The world’s best assassination group, led by the user Petyr, began to track him.


“Throwing daggers!”

Sweiiik-. Two daggers flew fiercely through the air, but they were not a major threat to Leeha.

“It’s still a long way off!”

He stood up, pulled the bolt of the 『Black Bass』, reloaded, and turned to the right to dodge the dagger, into the stand and shoot posture.

The accuracy will obviously decrease because of this position, but at this distance, it wasn’t a problem. Leeha pulled the trigger toward the nearest guy.

“Dod-”

Bang–!

Even before he could finish saying the word dodge, the bullet of the sniper rifle had already pierced his spine. One more person turned gray, and now only two were left. The faces of the assassins distorted.

“Acrobatic Sneak!”

If this had been his first time to encountered their swaying firgure, Leeha might not have been able to defend himself like this.

“I already know-”

However, he heard it from Biyemi.

It was a pattern of skills frequently used by assassins during a surprise attack.

The Acrobatic Sneak was a spectacular skill that showed an illusion, but in fact, Biyemi said that there won’t be a problem as long as Leeha aimed straight ahead.

“-That’s it.”

Even though Leeha took out and aimed the Needle-gun pistol into an empty spot, he was full of confidence.

“Click!”

The grapeshot bullets that scattered while making a net of fire hit something invisible.

When the main body of the man who stangered backwards appeared, Leeha aimed at him using the Black Bass.

“Backstab!”

And just as he was about to pull the trigger, the other assassin used a skill. The person who had been 5m away disappeared in an instant. The assassin’s skill was not only a simple movement skill, it was also incredibly fast!

“ I have already seen that move before!” Leeha leaped forward.

At that brief moment, he was floating in the air, he pulled out the Hummingbird-pistol and shot it at the one using ‘Acrobatic Sneak’! When white smoke rose out, Leeha, who had been thrown to the ground, turned around and lifted the Black Bass, and pulled the trigger.

Two gunshots resounded in a row!

The person who was staggering after getting hit by grapeshot bullets had his forehead pierced by an iron bullet from the Hummingbird. And the person who was about to attack him from behind had his left shoulder blown off.

 “Haa…… haa……”

After both assassins turned grey, Leeha stood up and brushed the dirt off his butt.

‘Phew, this really isn’t a joke, is it? It’s definitely different from the time the Rising Sun or Czar were after me.’

What if he didn’t find them first and dealt the first blow?

If he had to deal with all four assassins at close range, this would not have been possible.

‘No, since I have Force Barrier and Soul Link-’

It was only supposed to be used in case of an emergency.

The cooldown was so long that it could only be used once a day. If he was subjected to such attacks one after another, it meant that he was going tosuffer in the end.

‘I have to thoroughly manage my ammunition.’

He currently has two magazines of bullets left. Leeha reloaded both of his pistols. It would have been dangerous if he didn’t have the habit of carrying preloaded pistols all the time.

“Those bastards showed some signs before coming out. I almost lost my nerve.”

Leeha walked towards the grey corpses, picked up the items carefully, and looked up again. Using the mana clairvoyance to its limits, he did not see anything suspicious

‘I still have a few more hours before I get to Siand Frontier……”

The rugged Adamandir Moutain looked even more terrifying to Leeha.

However, after walking three more hours, nothing happened. Every time he heard a rustling sound, Leeha would get startled, but it was only an animal or monster.

‘Of course. If there were still some in hiding, there would have been more in the immediate vicinity.’

If they had foreseen failure, or if there were any reinforcements, they would have been nearby. The fact that they haven’t appeared yet meant that there really were only four of them.

‘There’s still a bit more time left for the access restriction, so they must have been ordinary assassins…. If Petyr connects, will he come to find me first?’

Leeha trembled at the image of the ranker with cat-like movements. The strongest assassin in the Midnight Circus, both in name and ability, Petyr.

The difference in ability that Biyemi confidently said was that Leeha would never have the chance at winning against Petyr in a one-on-one fight. 

‘He may not know about my weapon, but he said that I wouldn’t be able to hit him regardless.’

The assassins’ patterns and skill lists Biyemi gave were based on his own experience

In other words, he said that he could not predict Petyr’s movements now because Petyr is higher leveled now than when hewas ‘Nguyen’.

‘Right. If it’s a rifle, I should be able to scratch him if I shower him with bullets, however, it’s not possible with bolt action.’

Not to mention the general musket that needed to be reloaded by gunpowder one step at a time. Smoke entered Leeha’s vision as he contemplated how to take measures against Petyr

(To be continued…)
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After four hours of navigating the rugged mountains of Adamantine Mountain, the pioneering frontier began to come into view from a distance. The fence was surrounded by dense forest and was barely enough to prevent wild animals, and it was a place with a large number of tents and only a few wooden buildings.

It was hard to even call this place a village, it had the atmosphere of a temporary space so it was more appropriate to call it a campsite.

Leeha sped up.

Now, if only he could find the NPC who knew the traces of the dark elves, he would be able to proceed with his quest.

“Perhaps……. Mana clairvoyance, eagle’s Eye!”

There was only one route to the pioneering base.

While Leeha adjusted the magnification of the Eagle’s Eye, he looked closely from a distance. If by any chance there were assassins who have transformed into non-humans.

Perhaps, because they are leaving the vicinity of the Adamantine mountains, there were more trees and rocks around. Just like before, disguising as a tree could be enough. However, nothing particularly caught Leeha’s eye.

He just knew that there were more people than he expected on the frontier.

‘I’m glad… wait, is that a monster?’

At the top of the trees surrounding the frontier, he could see a faint glow of mana lingering for a while before disappearing.

It was obscured by the branches and leaves, but from the distribution of mana, it was obviously close to a human form.

‘Is it the Midnight Circus……? It’s possible. This is a lawless area.’

There was no organization in charge of security. And if it was Midnight Circus, it’s an assassin group. As ‘chaotic users’ who are excluded from the city, it was rare to find a comfortable space for them. It would also be understandable as to why they roamed around the frontier.

Click-!

Leeha pulled the bolt, reloaded, and moved again. Not knowing what was going to happen now, Leeha folded the leather case and put it in his bag.

Leeha proceeded carefully and headed towards the entrance of Siande Frontier. The buzzing noises around him started to get louder and louder.

“Is there anyone who wants to practice dueling?! Looking for a summoning or taming users!”


“W……who wants to visit the unexplored C-A-7-? Please apply only if you have 130,000 HP!”

“Let’s loot around Minis! Is there anyone going to rob an NPC’s farmhouse? Let’s go together with the break the bandits quest”

“Selling random teleportation scrolls! If you’re lucky, you’ll get a lot of pioneering stats by getting dropped near unexplored areas~ Buy it quickly~”

It was a shout that was different from regular party hunting or business.

‘Is it because of the mood? It is strangely rough.’

There were no additional surprises until he entered the village. If this is the case, then it should be safe.

‘The Midnight Circus isn’t that persistent, are they? Compared to the Rising Sun or Czar, it’s much better.’

Most importantly, Leeha knew that there was more than one target.

When Petyr died, the targets for assassination were Shin Nara, Biyemi, and Tale.

‘Maybe they sent assassins to the others too.’

That was a possibility. Moreover, if they were hiding on the road from Hell Anvil to Siand Frontier, it meant that they had investigated Leeha’s movements for more than one or two days.

He didn’t know where they came from, but their preparations were quite thorough.

Leeha opened the friends’ window and looked at the locations of the others.

It would be helpful if he let them know in advance that something happened. First, he went into one of the wooden buildings of the Siand Frontier to collect information from an NPC.

“’The One’ pub. I guess there wasn’t much competition in a place like this.”

Creaak-

After pushing the two swinging doors that opened at the height of his chest, Leeha already found people sitting around a table.

“Oh…”

And sighed.

People jumped out of their seats with the sound of kudang-dang-dang. Besides, there were more than just one.


“Marking obviously didn’t work…… right? Where did they see my information? No, if it’s like this, it might be because of the achievement.”

Hmm, Leeha nodded his head, but couldn’t hide his embarrassment. What was the point of him being so vigilant on his way here? This was a pioneering ground, a place with no security.

Therefore, he expected that Midnight Circus would hide around the village.

“Hmm…… Well, if I think about it, ‘no security organization’ doesn’t mean that. It meant that the whole town was a mess-”

But, that wasn’t it. Why couldn’t they be seen near the frontier?

It was because there was no reason to wait outside.

It meant that all of them could be inside the frontier, fuck!”

The Midnight Circus was already inside.

Leeha realized that the assassins would have instinctively realized that he had the ability to detect them.

In that case, the easiest place to hide was in ‘the gap between other people’.

“Kuhihihi-! Target discovered. it’s show time!”

“Uwaaak!”

Baang-!

He fired at the closest assassin! The bullets pierced their chest and smashed through the roof of the wooden building.

“Hey! There’s a hole in my roof! Oh, oh! Stop running on the tables!”

In the meantime, the bearded NPC still talked about nonsense, but Leeha did not have the time for him.

“Shadow Step!”

The skill restricted the target’s movement by stepping on their shadow. It was a very troublesome skill for ranged damage dealers and mages.

“Wow, no way!”

Leeha leaped over the table and fired the needlegun-pistol at the assassin trying to step on his shadow.


There were more than six clowns with the bizarre kihihihihi laugh, even when two of their colleagues were killed. When fighting in an open space like this pub, there was no chance for Leeha to win.

“Shut up, you bastards!!”

Leeha immediately retreated after firing, bang!

While the assassins stopped at Leeha’s gunshot, Leeha ran out of the pub.

“Ukikiki, You can’t leave your audience yet!”

“Cutting – Achilles’ Heel!”

A skill that attacks the ankles and slows down the target! As soon as Leeha felt the chill in his back, he jumped.

“Kuooat!”

However, he felt a tingling sensation on the heel of his foot and he grunted.

『Movement speed is reduced by 40% for 5 minutes.』

It was more painful than he thought, so Leeha frowned, but it was not the time to dwell on that little pain.

Movement speed was reduced by 40% for 5 minutes! Could it be said it’s a good thing it’s not ‘attack speed’ reduction? However, it was just one thing. It meant that in a situation where Leeha had a hard time dealing with the assassin’s fast and flashy movements, he would not be able to escape now like before.

“Damn, if it’s like this-”

Leeha quickly changed the magazine of the Black Bass, and simultaneously took out the Hummingbird-pistol. As soon as the assassins heard the news and saw Leeha’s silver pistol, they all performed acrobatics and spread out.

However, Leeha did not bring it out to shoot the assassins.

—-••••••

The white smoke spewing out of the gun spread toward the sky!

After giving off the effect of a signal to let everyone know that such a commotion was happening in the pub, Leeha raised his voice.

 “-Help! There are people doing PK in the village!”

There was no help from the NPCs. He knew that. But what about the users?! Would they just watch people killing other people indiscriminately like this in the village?

“Oh, is it Midnight Circus?”

“Haha, I thought they were here to perform- but they were actually here to catch someone!”

“Come on, audience! Isn’t hanging out with clowns a special experience? Uwahaha!”

“Those bastards didn’t even listen to me when I asked for a duel!”

Of course, they just watched.

“……Crazy.”

As he received the gaze of the people around him who did not have the heart to help, he could see for sure.

This place was the frontier for pioneering, the place farthest from the law and the closest to the fist.

Group PK or PVP was a common occurrence!

‘Fuck, I haven’t been able to save the location yet!’

The return scroll goes to the nearest town, so he wouldn’t end up here.

In other words, he had to use a random teleportation scroll to get out of here. Then he would have to walk another four hours from Hell Anvil.

Did it seem like Leeha had given up when he stood still?

The clowns, who had been running around without a break, slowly slowed their movements and began to surround Leeha. There were still six of them.

“Kuhihih, call Ringmaster-niim To secure an audience, we will show them a performance.”

“All right. Mr. Clown.”

The cheekbones of the clowns rose as if they were ascending to the sky. And Leeha, didn’t want them to see. He didn’t want to reveal it in a place like this.

“Right, it’s a trial version. These bastards. Delicate Hand Movement, snipe-” Both of Leeha’s hands quickly went into his bag. Biting the gunpowder bag, he started loading two pistols.

“That’s not gonna work!”

Leeha waited for the moment the clowns jumped toward him.

“-Soul Link.”

Paaaaat-!

“Kihut?”

“Why are you celebrating already? Kuhahaha!” Red light radiated so much that it blinded the clowns.

“You’re toast, you bastard.”

To the clown with blinded eyes, bang—! Leeha pulled the trigger and shouted.

“Kill all the bastards with powder on their faces, Kuma-ya!”

Kuooong—!

A fireball was fired at the assassin.

“Whoa, what is it? What did he summon?”

“A bear?”

“Wasn’t he a long ranged dealer?”

The five surviving assassins, as well as the eyes of the of the people near by.

『The skill Soul Link has been activated.』

『Soulmate is summoned for 30 minutes.』

『Soulmate’s current level is 66』

『1/2 of the users level is added.』

『Soulmate’s enhanced level is 145.』

(To be continued…)
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Kuma had boasted the majesty of field bosses even in the days of the Rising Sun. But now? Even when half of Leeha’s level was added, it was only level 145.

‘He must have been hunted by a player.’

Seeing the Kuma’s level is still 66, both the time of the Rising Sun and now, Leeha knew. Kuma must have already died. Because it was said that the level of the Soulmate was fixed to its level at the time of its death.

“Kihihihi, this is fun! Is this the new clown for our circus?!”

“The beast trainer position is already full! Puhu, puhuhuhu!”

Therefore, Kuma’s attack would not be much of a threat to them.

It was a field boss that boasted overwhelming power, but the level of the Midnight Circus clowns was higher than that of Kuma, and the fireball cut through the air and only smashed the fences.

“Damn it!!”

With Kuma as the tank, he could kill them one by one with me using the Black Bass. That was Leeha’s plan, however, it could not be realized.

The clowns only avoided Kuma’s attack and did not attack the Brown Bear.

“Acrobatic Sneak!”

“Shadow Step!”

Two clowns approached at the same time using their skills.

From the left, the blurry silhouette dazzled the eyes, and on the right, tried to jump over Leeha’s head!

“Get out of here! Almost!”

Taking a step back, Leeha put the Black Bass on his shoulder.

And with two arms crossed over his waist, he pulled out the two pistols from his belt, aimed, and fired!

Bang-!


Leeha knew and experienced the skills already, so he was prepared.

“Cough…”

Grapeshot and iron bullets blocked their movements, and the Black Bass’ bullet quickly hit one of them.

Click.

“Cough!”

The bullet slipped past the clown’s neck, but about one-third of his neck was torn off with that alone.

The clown died with a strange laughter. There were now four assassins left.

One of them was hit in the thigh with iron bullet, stumbled, and fell, and the other three dealt with Kuma.

Kuooong-!

“Run, huhu, run!”

“Run through the fire ring, bear! That way the audience will enjoy the show!” The three clowns tormented Kuma. Dodging its front paw attack, jumping over the fireball, and striking Kuma in its head and back using ultra-short distance movement.

Kuooo, Kuooong-!

Everytime the bear missed, they scratched its flaming hide.

The wounds were shallow, but their weapons were not simply made of iron. It was clear that something was painted on it, so that even Leeha’s eyes could see that the bear’s movements were gradually becoming duller.

“Kuma-ya!”

If the clowns focused on Kuma, then it was worth it. Leeha immediately knelt down on one knee and took his stance.

If he had that much aim stability, he would not miss. No matter how fast they were, he would not miss!

“Hey, you should play with me! Surprise Dance!”

『You lose control of your body for 20 seconds.』

『You are connected to the body of the user ‘Solier’.』


“W-What-”

Before he could pull the trigger, the guy who was hit by the Hummingbird-pistol suddenly jumped up. Even though he wasn’t dead, Leeha thought he would not be able to fight. What was the skill he suddenly used?

“Ahahaha, haha! Is it fun? Is it fun?”

Leeha suddenly felt his body jump up. However, he couldn’t stand back up to pull the trigger.

“Uhu, uhuhuhu, wait and see! Because training wild beasts is one of the things we enjoy!”

“Eeek-”

His body did not move as if he was bound by something.

His mouth barely moved, and his head did not turn. Rather than that, he raised his arms and waved them uncontrollably regardless of his will.

“Are you good at dancing?! Huh? You dance so well!”

“Uhahaha, the Midnight Circus bastards are really vicious.”

“They’re not even evil, they are just crazy.”

They could not see Leeha, but the users around them were bursting with laughter.

Watching the clown, who bled from the hole in his thigh, and Leeha, move in the same motion. Leeha imitated the actions of the Midnight Circus assassin regardless of his will.

“Cheer up, ranged dealer!”

“He did a good job! At first glance, his weapon looks like Luger’s, but he is not as good him.”

20 seconds in battle felt like eternity. In that eternal moment, where Leeha lost control of his body, the three Midnight Circus assassins ran towards Kuma at the same time. None of them were tankers, mages, or ranged dealers and they were all masters of close combat, and as a field boss, he had no experience dealing with them.

Kuooh…….

“Kuma-ya!!!”

『Soul Link skill has been cancelled.』

『Soulmate’s soul returned.』


“Ah, you bastards-!”

And at the end of 20 seconds, Leeha blew the head of the user who used the Surprise Dance skill. Leeha made a series of movements as fast as lightning until he picked up the Black Bass again, turned around, and fired.

“Wow! Isn’t he good? He hit the assassin’s head while moving like that.”

“Still, it’s 3 on 1, so shouldn’t he run? I don’t think he will be able to summon that bear again……”

The users admired Leeha’s skill, but the situation was still unfavorable. Leeha also felt it. Fortunately, the area was not blocked.

‘Damn it, I need a strategic retreat.’

The moment Leeha sat down, the clowns rushed in. However, Leeha’s words were faster.

“Force Barrier!”

Wang- As soon as the turquoise -colored barrier was created, the assassin’s weapon were blocked with a cling-clang sound.

“Oh?! Shield!”

“He’s a ranged dealer, so his life-preservation is good!”

“Leeha, seeing that you have quite a few skill sets, aren’t you quite smart?”

The clowns approached with a smile, but Leeha was not worried.

The duration of the Force Barried was enough to record the frontier’s location and use a scroll back to Hell Anvil again.

‘You fucking bastards, I will definitely come back and get revenge.’

Leeha saw the clowns and gritted his teeth.

The assassins of the Midnight Circus surrounded Leeha and laughed, scratching the barrier with their weapons.

“Hmmm, hmm, I can’t see the stage properly……”

“Should we break it? Will you break it? Uhihihi!”

“Contact the Ringmaster now!”

Ringmaster, a term used to refer to the stage director of a circus. According to Biyemi, he was the ‘director’ of Midnight Circus.

The strongest NPC that surpassed even Petyr and Biyemi/Nguyen.

‘I will retreat like this, but I have to come back to find the dark elves anyway… What if they come again?”

If they are mixed with people, they wouldn’tbe detected by mana clairvoyance.

Leeha bit his lips.

“ Hey clowns.”

“Hmm?”

“Huh?”

“Get lost, I need to ask him something.”

Step, step, step.

A man walked through the crowd.

Black top and bottom, black shoes, and black coat.

Seeing the man with long black hair, the eyes of the surrounding users widened.

“Oh, ohhh-!”

“T-t-t-t-that!”

No, it might be because of the pitch-black long sword he was holding. Even the expressions of the clows from Midnight Circus began to harden.

****

‘Oh, a-amazing. Even after a week, it’s only 7%, isn’t it a crazy game?’ The man grunted and checked his character window. Even though he ran wildly, it felt like the road is still a thousand miles long.

‘How the hell did that bastard climb so fast? I can’t chase after those monsters, so I won’t.’

Where the man was standing, an army of monsters were running from the small hill.

They had armors and weapons that looked better than the manmade ones, some even had shields, but they were not for humans.

The cursed undead legion that went beyond skeletons, they were the guardians of the cursed land, born through the magic of the field boss, lich Bane!

“Even though I drove them all- One, two, three, four-……. Roughly two hundred? Well. One hundred and fifty would be enough to pay for a meal.”

The man smacked his lips as he looked at the two hundred undead guardians running toward him. There was no impatience on him.

Much less tension, black streaks started to gather in his body.

“Lightning Hurricane.”

Hwiiii-.

The air current danced in front of the man.

A whirlwind of sparks bounced in the air as if static electricity was being squeezed. However, it was not enough to stop a large army of more than two hundred undeads. The man quickly finished casting consetively.

“Giga Spark!”

He once again added lightning magic to the whirlwind that was heading toward the undead guardians.

The two huge lightning magic collided, and a loud sound was created.

The moment the air current that could not handle the swelling mana disappeared, the lightning trapped in the tornado flew through the armor of the entire undead army- bzzt bzzt bzzt.

“Kkiii-”

“Kiik- Kiii-”

Did he believe that they would stick together, or did he believe they would move. At least, it was not a skill that was used after hunting such a large army once or twice.

When the undead guardians were paralyzed and made crackling and grinding noises, a black sword was already in the man’s hand.

“Sol Blaze.’’

The moment the light like the sun appeared from the sword that seemed to absorb even light, the man’s body shot like an arrow.

It was his movement that caught the eye, more than the black sword that emitted the light of the sun, or the whirlwind mixed with lightning.

It was the natural connection of Swinging, cutting, stabbing, and kicking motions.

It felt like he was moving a part of his body rather than wielding a sword.

For those who didn’t know martial arts, it could be seen as a sword dance, and the natural beat and harmony were in sync for about 15 minutes

It was also exactly the time it took for all two hundred undead guardians to return to dust.

“Ahh, this isn’t enough! Oh man. There isn’t even a slight difference in experience. When the hell is the Lich Bane chick coming out? Shouldn’t it be between today and tomorrow?”

The man complained even though he had caught two hundred level 200 undead guardians in 15 minutes.

“Blink, blink, blink!”

Seuk, seuk, seuk-.

He roamed the entire hunting ground using a short-distance space movement, but the field boss the man wanted did not appear.

“Ugh, this is annoying. The information I got was wrong, and the sundries piled up. Oh, today is not my day. I need to sell this.”

The man left his regrets behind and used a return scroll. He didn’t forget to put on his hood.

(To be continued…)
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“Are you going to sell all of this?”

“Yes.”

“I-I can’t afford this with the money we have in the store-”

“Ah! It’s okay, just give me as much as you have. Give me as much money, potions, scrolls, and whatever you have on you to me.”

“Y-yes, understood. Understood.”

The merchant NPC crouched and opened the supply box behind the tent. They were not in a big city, even the NPCs did not carry a lot of money. After all, this place was a lawless area.

“Cheer up, audience! Isn’t hanging out with clowns a special experience? Wahahaha!”

“Those bastards didn’t even listen to me when I asked for a duel!”

The man heard noises while waiting for the merchant. The man frowned as he heard cheers of users from afar.

“……Another pointless fight. They should just level up.”

The man looked at them as if they were pathetic.

Of course, he knew that the rampaging people were from the Midnight Circus.

“Hmm-”

However, who was their victim this time? The man frowned. He could clearly see who the clowns were targeting.

Luger? N-no. Luger was a blonde. Well, what is that? Who is it?”

He looked at the man, to be more accurate, he was looking at the long weapon he was holding.

As far as the man knew, there was only one person in Middle Earth who used such a weapon, and the person he knew of was a different person.

“Right, it’s a trial version. This bastards. Delicate Hand Movement, snipe, soul Link!”


Waaak-!

A red light suddenly exploded out of nowhere. The light was enough to make even the man frown for a moment.

‘Ooh-lala, he summoned a bear. A bea – no, isn’t that a field boss?’

Impossible. Field bosses were not normal monsters!

The man already knew that they cannot be tamed or summoned. However, whoever the Midnight Circus’ target was did it.

‘That’s like a summoner’s hidden weapon-.’

Even before he could finish thinking about it, the ‘long weapon’ the man had been paying close attention to made a noise.

Baaang—!

With that one sound, the life of one of the clowns ended.

“-not! T-that…… Luger’s gun? No, it can’t be…… Who is he?”

That was what caught the man’s attention. The battle with the clowns, which he considered useless, suddenly became interesting.

‘No, it’s different. It’s not just the hair color. The color of the item is different. Luger’s is blue.’

Luger’s looked more like a cannon than a gun.

The thickness and length were also different. The one used by the unknown man was easy to see, and it was thinner and shorter than Luger’s.

‘It was a familiar move to handle guns, but he’s not very familiar with one-on-one combat. Well, it’s bound to happen if you’re not used to fighting against the clowns of the Midnight Circus…… still, the close combat reaction is a bit slow- compared to Luger, it’s a little embarrassing.’

The man carefully watched the battle between Leeha and the clowns.

He was similar to Luger, but he inferior to Luger in combat ability and all other aspects. However, one thing was different.

There was one thing that caught the man’s interest.

‘How did he summon the field boss? If he has the same profession as Luger, then he must be a musketeer……. And with a reload like that, it’s no longer a musket. It feels more like a K2. There’s no other profession that could get that kind of weapon……

A summoner’s skill and a musketeer’s weapon. Either one was clearly not job-related.


‘Does he also have pistols?! That’s Kidd- right, that gun is job-related, he is definitely a musketeer. Then!’

It meant that summoning the field boss was a special skill!

The man realized that it was something attached to an item or achievement.

“Break it? Will you break it? Uhihihi!”

“Contact the ringmaster now!”

The battle was already over. The clowns of the Midnight Circus surrounded the shield. After the shield’s duration was over, he would no longer have the opportunity to talk with the person who summoned the field boss, whether he ran away or died.

In the end, the man took actionfirst.

“Hey, clowns.”

“Hmm?”

“Huh?”

“Get lost, I have something to ask him.”

And then he drew out a black sword. Not only the users around them, but also the clowns of Midnight Circus widened their eyes.

“Oh, ooh- oooh”

“T-t-t-that!”

“M-M-Magic Swordsman Lee Jiwon!” Magic Swordsman Lee Jiwon, 2nd in the world ranking, appeared in Siand Frontier.

“Puhu, puhu, Lee Jiwon! Lee Jiwon!”

“So easy! It’s also easy to take care of you, easy!”

The clowns jumped. They widened the gap in an instant with back tumbling.

It was a move made by the three assassins under that judgement that it would be difficult for the Magic Swordsman even in a 3-on-1 battle.

“Get lost.”


“You too, will have to deal with Petyr-nim someday-”

“Sol Blaze, corona Zet.”

화악，흑색의 검에서 다시금 태 양의 빛이 발현되나 싶었으나 아 까와는 달랐다.

Rather than simply surrounding the surface of the sword, particles were released in the air in an instant from the tip of his sword. There was no way to avoid the skill that had no casting time.

One clown from the Midnight Circus caught on fire.

“Kiki- Keeek！”

“Shadow-”

“Ice Spike.”

“Step- Kihaaaak!”

Lee Jiwon shot a Arcane Bullet behind his back. The clown, who was about to step over his head and step on his shadow, was pierced by the ice spikes protruding from the ground.

“Lightning bolt.”

“Kahaaaak!”

The situation was over as the rest of the clowns, which could not react to what happened in an instant, were defeated. Users around them did not have a chance to be surprised.

It only took 20 seconds or so for Lee Jiwon to sort out the three assassins that Leeha had been struggling with.

“When I said get lost, I meant it……. Are you okay?”

Lee Jiwon approached Leeha, who was still inside the Force Barrier, he couldn’t keep his mouth closed as he watched Lee Jiwon’s swordsmanship.

The difference in skill was too huge. If the users around them didn’t call the man Lee Jiwon, Leeha would have believed that it was a fight between a moderator and some users.

“……Lee Jiwon……”

“Hmm, did this barrier come from an item? Can you move?”

“Yes? N-no, anyway, this is a skill.”

“Ah, you can’t release the skill? Don’t worry, I’ll help you.”

Lee Jiwon raised his black sword and aimed at the barrier.

Then, like a hot knife through butter, it cut through the force barrier.

Advanced force barrier.

Leeha’s life preservation skill that did not budge to any attack or skill. In fact, it wasn’t an exaggeration to say that he got a second life because of this skill….

The attack that tore the force barrier wasn’t even a skill.

There were only a few people who would have been able to crack this force barrier….

‘It wasn’t even able to withstand it for a second, what-’

What should he say?

However, as if nothing bad had happened, Lee Jiwon put back his sword, and reached out to Leeha. In his hand was a bottle of water glimmering in a soft light.

“Can you see it? Can I give you a potion?”

Perhaps he misunderstood that Leeha was blinded because of the attack. Leeha grabbed the potion and grabbed Lee Jiwon’s hand.

“Ah, that- yes. Thank you.”

『You have acquired a holy potion made of rare holy water.』

‘……Crazy……”

Why did someone who used such a rare potion to help him? How much did this even cost? Leeha didn’t know what to think, but right now Lee Jiwon was his benefactor.

“Can I ask you something? But before that, let’s move to a different place.”

After helping Leeha up, Lee Jiwon looked around and frowned. There were a lot of people around them taking videos and photos. Of course, they would not be able to capture Lee Jiwons’s figure.

Still, he couldn’t help but be concerned.

“Yes, of course.”

And a party request popped up. Leeha saved the location of Siand Frontier and accepted the party request.

“Mass Teleport.”

If Lee Jiwon was going to do anything, even before Leeha could think of tearing up a teleport scroll, his body would have already been moved to another place.

“Ahh……. They left.”

After such a great commotion, there was a moment of silence, and the Siand Frontier became noisy instantly.

“By the way, who was that bastard, did Lee Jiwon pretend to know him?”

“I think I’ve seen him a lot……:”

“Before, back in the day, what was it? Was it the rising Sun. Or the setting Sun Desperado?”

“AH! Right! When that war broke out in Fibiel, was it Arcane Sniper?! Is it that person?”

“What? Why are they together? And why did the Midnight Circus pursue Arcane Sniper?”

Whisper whisper, rumors spread around the frontier.

“We’re here…”

Seeing the light from afar, were they in a cave? There was little light coming in, but because of the light stonesaround them, the inside was brighter than Leeha thought.

“Hmm, it’s not quite right to call it my hideout, it’s just an evacuation site. Because I don’t like being around people.”

“I see.”

Leeha looked around the cave and took a map out of his bag. The place did not appear on the map he bought from Hell Anvil. They were somewhere in an unexplored area.

‘Right. He has a personality that annoyed people.’

His nickname was indicative of that.

After hearing the news that his gap with the number one in ranking had narrowed, numerous organizations wanted to interview him and they actually did.

How did you level so quickly? Was it difficult?

There’s a lot of talk about the control of magic for swordsmen, but do you think the difficulty is high?.

What are your thoughts on Alexandor? Are you confident about winning against him?

To all the questions asked by all kinds of group, Lee Jiwon only had one thing to say.

‘Too easy!’

It was lazy and indiferrent, but the world went crazy for the short answer that exuded so much confidence.

Some people called it charisma, and some called it arrogance, but at least the short answer had a strong impact.

Thanks to that answer, his relationship with the number one ranker, Alexander, became even worse, so how fun it must have been for the onlookers?

‘I thought he was trying to create a concept on purpose to gain popularity or something, but I guess that wasn’t the case.’

After looking around and glancing at Lee Jiwon to grasp the atmosphere, Leeha became curious again. What was the reason Lee Jiwon talked to him? What did he want to talk about?.

 “There…… hmm……” About your skill earlier.”

“Skill?”

“The field boss you summoned.”

“Ah, that.”

Lee Jiwon scratched his head.

“Tell me about it.”

“……What?”

What was this all of a sudden? Leeha was dumbfouded!

When Leeha made such an expression, Lee Jiwon talked again.

“I mean the Brown bear you summoned.”

That. Please tell me. How did you do it? Your job is a musketeer isn’t it?.”

“No, well…… How did I do it……”

It usually wasn’t polite to ask questions like this.

Doesn’t acquiring skills in Middle Earth have to be done through collecting information through research, or by completing hidden quests?

In other words, it meant that all things related to certain skills are kept a secret. You have to discover it yourself.

“Aren’t you going to tell me?”

“You usually don’t tell these kinds of things to strangers, do you?”

“Didn’t I just save you?”

“I appreciate that, but I should have been able to escape on my own. Using a scroll would have been enough.”

“What?”

You’re lying Lee Jiwon, I could save myself! Leeha had an expression that seemed to say that. Is he a little over 20 years old now?

Leeha could not hide his surprise as he looked at Lee Jiwon’s face, he had a young face that could be in his early 20’s or even in his late teens. How ridiculous was it to have a face like that?

‘It wasn’t that he is annoyed with people, can it be that his communication skills are very poor in the first place?’

Maybe the reason why Ram Hwajung didn’t speak much was that she was shy.

But Lee Jiwon talked quite a bit, but it seemed he just didn’t take into consideration other people’s feelings at all

In any case, it could be said that Middle Earth geniuses might be people who all have at least one screw missing.

“Cough, then- Uhhhm……”

“Well, I guess I can tell you about it because we’re both Korean.” (editor- “really ( ≖_≖ )” )

“Oh? You’re Korean?”

“Yes. I am Ha Leeha.”

“Ha Leeha! Your nickname is unique.”

Leeha thought Lee Jiwon might know about the Rising Sun or Hwahong vs. Byulcho, but his reaction told him otherwisel.

‘He’s crazy about hunting, so he doesn’t have any interest in others.’

The reason Leeha said that was because he wanted to suggest some kind of trade. Although Leeha currently only had the Soul Link skill in Middle Earth, there were limitations in using and obtaining it anyway.

So, what other ways could he use the skill?

“It’s my real name…… Anyway. I’ll tell you about the skill, so can I ask you a few questions?”

“Yea sure sure, anything.”

“Do you know where Fernand is?”

In any case, he was second in the ranking, wouldn’t that mean that he had been to hunting grounds that no human have ever touched before?

And because of that, Leeha thought that Lee Jiwon knew something that even the Intelligence Guildsdidn’t know.

“Fernand..… You mean that Indiana Jones guy? I saw him around four or five days ago…”

“Where was he?”

The first question was a very big deal.

(To be continued…)
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After obtaining information on Fernand, Leeha asked about the dark elves. However, Lee Jiwon didn’t seem to know exactly where the dark elves were.

“I don’t know where they are, but they do come to the Siand Frontier. I even killed a few of them.”

“K-killed?”

“They were annoying bitches. It was the first time I saw someone more poisonous than a journalist. Today as well, they might have invaded the frontier.”

The reason they’re still alive was probably that each individual dark elf was much stronger than most human users. As expected, they were no match for Lee Jiwon.

“Now, tell me.”

“Hey, I think it’s too much of a loss for me to only get information on Fernand?”

“Ah, tell me!”

“Nope, it’s not enough.”

Leeha calmly shook his head. The name Lee Jiwon is nothing to scoff at. In any case, the space wasn’t locked, and most importantly, it was a situation where Lee Jiwon wanted it more than anything else, so Leeha had to take the initiative.

“We’re both Korean! We need to help each other to survive! If I beat Alexander and climb to the top, it would all be good!”

“What’s that gonna do for me? Today’s the first time I’ve met you Lee Jiwon…”

“Ah! Just tell me already!, tsk.”

Perhaps it’s not that he didn’t want to be bothered with people, maybe it was because he was in too much of a hurry to care.

Lee Jiwon frowned as he wore an arrogant expression. Still, he wasn’t a child, but what he was doing was really childish.

“Please tell me! Let me know the secret!”

“Alexander doesn’t even have this skill. Because I was the first one in the hall of fame. You want me to tell you something that only I know of in Middle Earth, but just the information about Fernand is not enough.”

“Oh, it’s a shame, really! Luger also has a temper, but musketeers are all like that, aren’t they?”


“……Huh? You know Luger?”

“I know him. That brute is always looking for a fight with me. I’m avoiding him because I wouldn’t gain anything even when I beat him. He’s really annoyingly strong.”

Does that mean that Luger was strong enough to make Lee Jiwon’s head shake?

It was not good news for Leeha, just when he thought that he had caught up to Luger and Kidd to some extent while he received the dark elf-related quest.

 “Hmm……. But why do you want to learn the skill so much? Lee Jiwon-ssi is already strong.”

“T-that…… just…” Lee Jiwon had a plan. And Leeha wanted to know what his intention was.

“If you tell me, I can help you. As expected, it’s good for Koreans to rise to the top of the rankings.”

“R-right? That’s right! I might be able to help you out later. If you let me know, I will never forget your grace.”

“I understand, so tell me. Why do you want to learn this skill?”

Lee Jiwon had already been caught in Leeha’s trap. At least, when it came to talking to people and getting information, there was no one who could beat Leeha. (editor “are you sure about that 【 ͠❛ - ͡❛】”)

“Hmm……. If I learn that, I will be able to beat Alexander.”

“Huh?”

“I can finally catch up to that bastard”

“You want to hunt together… with the summoned bear? Well, let me tell you in advance, it doesn’t last that long. It won’t make a difference in leveling speed.”

It was only 30 minutes a day. Could he level up with that? However, Lee Jiwon looked at Leeha and said.

“Yes? Of course. I won’t be able to keep up with that bastard anyway. Then there’s only one way left.”

“What?”

“To lower that bastard’s level by killing him. Until I get first place.”

“……Oh!”

Regardless of level, there is a penalty of level going down by 1 when you die. Naturally, the higher the level, the worse the penalty.


Even if it was the same level down, level 10 becoming level 9 is a different matter from level 200 going to level 199.

Lee Jiwon was trying to make use of that. It meant that if he couldn’t catch up by leveling up, he would grab the enemy’s ankle and drag him down to his level.

“If I fight him 1-on-1 with that bastard, I win. But because of the twin dragons- anyway, if I can summon a dragon to deal with them, I can win. If I have a summon that can last 10 to 15 minutes against a dragon…. I will win without fail.”

Lee Jiwon’s eyes were on fire.

It was natural for a Dragon Knight to use a dragon, but a person who lost to him would have a lot to say.

At first glance, Leeha admired the young man in front of him spitting out the law of survival, which was brutal but also taken for granted. At least it was clear why he was ranked number two.

“Ah, and can you only summon bears? I don’t think so.”

Before Leeha’s surprise could go away, Lee Jiwon opened his mouth again.

“Ooo……ps? W-wait.”

Besides, that point was quite reasonable! Soul Link was not a skill that summoned a ‘Field Boss Brown Bear’. 

‘Right’••…. It’s just that my soulmate is a Brown Bear. I just coddled Kuma and let him go, and he returned to his natural home and raised his level and became a Brown Bear, right?’ What if it wasn’t Kuma that he coddled in the first place? What about other monsters?

Lee Jiwon did not know about this skill.

It would be a skill that didn’t even give a hint at all.

As Leeha thought about it in the past and experienced people’s reactions, it was only natural to kill a baby monster once it was found.

‘And even my skill is still in the beginner stage. There was no level, but what if the rank went up?’

Leeha’s skill was used sparingly to avoid exposing it.

But what if he didn’t care and used it all the time? By now, the rank should have risen by one. What would the options be if it became an intermediate Soul Link?

‘Is Lee Jiwon thinking like this just from seeing the skill once…?” (editor “ the idea’s not that crazy Leeha -_-”)

The eyes of a Middle Earth genius are different.

Watching Leeha summon the Brown Bear, Lee Jiwon instinctively saw its potential.


Specifically, how to use the skill to deal with Alexander’s dragon.

In a way, Leeha could imagine it right now.

“Tell me, I will help you with anything later. Raid, PK, you name it. I will help you just once, no matter what.”

“R…really?”

“Really! Unconditionally! Promise! If not then lightning will strike me down, for real! Do you want to be friends?”

It was certain. The fact that Lee Jiwon desperately wanted the skill convinced Leeha of the potential of his skill. In any case, Leeha already obtained Fernand’s information. Also, the person who ranked second in the rankings added him as a friend directly, so he already gained a lot.

“That. Okay. I will tell you, so you have to help me later.”

“Trust me. I can even help you kill someone I will unconditionally help you at least once. If you add me as a friend, you can directly show me the skill.”

And a notification window appeared in front of Leeha While looking at the add friend window, Leeha opened his mouth again.

“Ah! If possible, I want to add something extra. Do you have any agility-related achievements worth getting?”

“Oh, achievement?”

“Please tell me a couple. I won’t ask much.”

Looking at Leeha nodding with an expression of “I’m giving you a lot of slack already”, Lee Jiwon could not decide whether he should be happy or sad.

‘As expected, dealing with people is annoying.’

I’ve never been swayed like this ever since I became a ranker.

Lee Jiwon sighed and opened his achievements window. His burning passion to defeat Alexander, the number one ranker, was that much.

****

“Woow-! It’s not even a giant dragon!”

Leeha held the Black Bass’ case and crouched as much as possible. Since the distance of the next target was close, it must have received a little less air resistance.

 “Ugh!”

Tuk- And he managed to catch a thick branch.

Hanging from a tree, he looked at the tree he had jumped from, 15m away.

‘This is crazy, it is completely crazy.’

After jumping from a tree 15m away he reached this tree. It was a huge distace that even a monkey could not achieve and only a flying squirrel could, but Leeha did it. Babam-!

“Pheeew……. My legs are trembling.”

Leeha slowly climbed down the tree, and examined the absurd achievement he had achieved.

『Achievement: Flying on Grass(B+)』

Congratulations! You have traveled for 5km without magic and never touched the ground! Even a monkey will show respect to you. Perhaps you are an ancient master who has even been erased from the ancient records?!

Reward: Agility +15

‘If I had fallen, I would have broken a leg, wouldn’t I? I wouldn’t have died right?”

As he descended the tree with trembling arms and legs, Leeha thought about this absurd achievement. An achievement that could only be achieved with the power of a body without magic, and can only be achieved by moving a distance of 5km up on a tree.

‘I used to walk around on trees when I fought the Rising Sun, but the forest wasn’t that wide.’

Its total diameter was supposed to be about 5km, but he only moved in the center.

In order to get this achievement, Leeha had to find a terrain with more than 5 kilometers of trees, rather than physical ability to be between trees.

‘Even if I found out about it, I wouldn’t have been able to do it without this bracelet. Anyway, those Middle Earth guys are geeks.’

Why did they make this an achievement? Did they want the users to make good use of the items they have obtained?

Anyway, Leeha breathed a sigh of relief as he looked at the leather bracelet wrapped around his arm.

He never dreamed that he would be able to use an item that increased jumping power by 300% this way.

“Well, it’s still B+ grade. This is surely crazy.”

Seeing that the Hall of Fame did not appear meant that there were at least two people, including Lee Jiwon, that got this achievement.

Leeha returned to Siand Frontier after getting one of the achievements Lee Jiwon shared with him.

“Oh? A while ago today, whatchamacallit!”

“Where did Lee Jiwon go?”

“Do you know Lee Jiwon?”

It was during the time when it was about to get dark, but some users remembered the events of the day.

They were interested because he was with Lee Jiwon for a while, but what about him? After thinking for a while, Leeha exhaled.

“Well. Lee Jiwon told me not to talk about our conversation. If I talk about it, he will come back here.”

“What? Really? Then you should talk about it! When he comes, I will come with a screen-”

“He said he will come and kill everyone.”

“-A……. Cough, I-I-I’m looking for someone to go hunting the armored ogre~“

The users who gathered around Leeha dispersed in an instant. No one dared to fight against Lee Jiwon in a lawless area where PK was not illegal. 

‘Weak to the strong, but strong to the weak…. Is it natural for a lawless area?’

Leeha understood why they take him relatively lightly.

Because he wasn’t able to defeat Midnight Circus. However, it was unfortunate for Leeha in its own way.

‘Those bastards, if they were in one space, everything will be over in one shot!’

Where in the world was there a sniper that could deal with a surprise attack in a narrow pub!

It was already great that he was able to preserve his life and almost win….

‘If Lee Jiwon didn’t intervene, I would have won. As soon as the force barrier was over, huh? I have the Hummingbird and Needlegun! And I can shoot their heads with Black Bass! If I did, just-…… Phew, what’s the point of thinking about it now?’

Leeha shook his head and looked around carefully. Perhaps there were other assassins from Midnight Circus hiding nearby.

“It doesn’t seem like they are in town……. I bet they are scared of Lee Jiwon.”

Leeha circled around the building looking for a few NPCs in the Siand Frontier had the most info regarding the dark elves, but no one knew their whereabouts. There was only one hint, and that was, do not use anything other than the road that extends from the frontier to the north and south.

“Why?”

“Well, when I went into the forest, people didn’t come out. Dead or whatever. Anyway? There are dangers lurking outside the road, so be careful.”

“Hmm……

“But with this, there will be no problems! Teleporting in case of danger is-”

“No, it’s fine. Thank you.”

Leaving behind the grim expression of the merchant NPC, Leeha headed to the fence of the pioneering base.

A fairly large forest surrounded the base. The land beyond the forest was an unexplored area, even the topography was not well known. It reminded Leeha of the first time he went to Siand Frontier through the Adamantine Mountains.

‘What happened……’

On the tree. There was something fishy about it.

At the time, Leeha thought it was the Midnight Circus assassin, but anyway, no other guys appeared except for those who jumped out of the pub.

If so, what was that guy?

‘It’s not just a normal animal. It could use mana as well, so it should be a shaman.’

Orc Shaman? No. There was no mention of such a guy around here, and a shaman would never climb a tree.

“Should I go check it out?”

He opened the leather case and took out Black Bass. He changed the magazine loaded with five rounds, and restocked the pistols.

Now at the Siand Frontier, where the sun had now completely set, Leeha carefully crossed a fence.

Where only darkness awaited him there.

(To be continued…)
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Riip-.

Leeha tore a detection scroll. Although the form is different from mana clairvoyance, it was perfect for finding those who were hidden. Although the range was narrow, at least there was no one hiding nearby.

“Phew…”

He didn’t know what would happen. Anyway, according to the NPC’s words, there was no one who went into the forest that had come back alive, it sounded like there was something there.

‘After all, the users must have gone to another place because they were upset after they had died, but there’s nothing good about ignoring the NPC’s words.’

With a click, he pulled the bolt and loaded one shot.

How far can he go to find their traces?. The feeling of fallen leaves and pebbles being stepped on by the sole of his shoe was felt completely. .

Fortunately, there was quite a bit of moonlight.

Unfortuately, even the moonlight could not completely illuminate his vision.

Leeha continued to walk into the forest with a blurry and dark silhouette. The cries of insects and unknown animals could be heard intermittently.

‘If only I had night vision…’

Night vision goggles

It didn’t even have to be in sight form. They would have been struggling to make a general scope, so it is unreasonable to expect that they would be able to make a Night Vision-scope as well.

‘It would be nice if I had the goggles type. The creation material shouldbe an owl or an owl-like creature.’

They were making a sight item by using the eyeballs of a cyclops.

If the eye structure of the night-eyed beast was applied, it should be plausible to create a night vision item.

‘It would be impossible with the eyes of a normal owl. I have no choice but to find an owl-like monster after all.’

Of course, Leeha didn’t know how to handle eyeballs and to make them into objects that are usable for humans.


‘I would be in trouble if I found out about the dwarves’ trade secret. Haha.’

Step, step.

In the meantime, Leeha advanced slowly.

Leeha knew that there’s nothing more foolish than moving aroud at night. There was a regular sound of footsteps. He should focus on every sound he heard.

Because I might instantly get caught. However, he shouldn’t look back right away. He needed to find where the sound came from. Something moved. It could just be an animal but….

After moving a few steps, Leeha heard the sound once again, and he concentrated his senses.

Tok- Grrr….

There was an echoe, but he knew where the source came from.

He heard it from behind. It was close to a sound of a small stone falling. It was behind Leeha, but a little bit higher.

‘Mana Clairvoyance.’

Leeha did not stop moving.

Keeping a regular pace, he leisurely stepped on the forest floor. If he stopped now, someone over there will notice.

Immediately after using his skill, as if looking at the moon and stars, he slowly turned his head very slowly.

And found something.

Unlike the trees and vines that did not change colors, the mana clairvoyance caught a figure. There were 5 of them. Should I shoot? He discovered them, but he couldn’t easily make a decision.

He lowered his head again and started moving slowly.

‘If I shoot, I would definitely catch one.’

But was that a good thing? What if they were dark elves? Leeha needed to talk to the dark elves right now.

He wouldn’t be able to have a conversation with them if he punctured their heads. There’s no race in the world that would be able to do so.

It was the downside of mana clairvoyance. He could know if there was something there, but he couldn’t know what that something was.


Was it the dark elves? If not-.

He didn’t have to worry. If he was in a hurry, he should be prepared to use a scroll. Unless they were dark elves….

Whether it was fortunate or unfortunate, Leeha’s worries did not last long.

“Kikit, grab him!!!”

Because the other party revealed their identity first. Leeha immediately turned around and knelt down on one knee.

“Damn it, it’s you guys again?!”

And bang—!

A loud gunshot rang out in the forest of Siand Frontier.

Midnight Circus was a tenacious group. But even with the name of their group as it was, Leeha didn’t know that they liked to wander around at night. (ed: cuz you a dummy ( ─︣ ‿ ─︣ ) )

“Cough.”

One of the people jumping towards him flew back. And he immediately retreated and pulled the bolt again.

They hid behind trees or moved between them to avoid being caught by Leeha, but this did not work with the current him.

Even if they tried to move between the trees in the dark, click, bang—!

He had mana clairvoyance.

They tried to hide behind the thin trees, however, Leeha was not using an ordinary musket, click, bang.

“Did you think I didn’t attack you because I couldn’t kill you? You bastards!”

Wait, weren’t there only 5 of them? Why are there now 6?? Just as Leeha was about to fire his rifle at the unfamiliar assassins again, something flew. Something that did not have a sound cut through the air in the dark.

“Heup!”

He hurriedly raised his left arm to cover his face, but that caused a different problem.

Small needles stuck into his forearm, and his eyesight did not turn red, but the notification window that appeared in front of Leeha made his face darken.


『You are under the abnormal status condition ‘partial anesthesia’.』

『You will not be able to move your arm for 2 minutes.』

Two minutes of being unable to move his left arm was enough to bring Leeha to his death.

“Kek, did you think we were that stupid?”

Two-armed pistols? That was a risk. A sniper is not a risk taker. Leeha immediately started running while holding the Black Bass.

“Follow me if you can!”

And he ran, paat-! Even with that single jump, Leeha had enough jumping power to climb a tree.

“Kihihit, get him, catch him!”

“Tag, you’re it! Muahahaha!”

The cheeks of the clowns rose at the hide-and-seek game that started in the middle of the night.

“They really were psychopaths.”

They were enjoying this situation. Was it impossible to join Midnight Circus without being crazy?.

“Stop, stop!”

“If I told you to stop, would you stop?”

Still, he had the Flying on Grass achievement. Aside from his increased agility, it also meant that he had to some extent trained in moving from tree to tree.

It was a moonlit night lacking in light, but Leeha’s speed was not slow.

Swiish- swiish-.

 The leaves and wind that appeared through the darkeness slapped his face.

Yet, Leeha still had to play this game of tag for a minute or so. The earie laughter coming from behind him was getting closer and closer.

‘Experts are still experts huh, so they’ll catch up eventually. If they do, I will have to use a scroll- huh?’ Something got caught in the mana clairvoyance. There were four unknown beings in front of Leeha!

‘What the fuck is this?! It was a two-way operation!?’

That’s why there were fewer people at the start!

Leeha barely managed to open his bag using his right arm. He couldn’t afford to fight six assassins now that he was not able to use Black Bass!

“Damn it, scroll-”

Swiiiik-!

At that moment, something flew passed Leeha’s cheeks.

“Cough!”

“Keuk…”

He heard the death of the assassins along with a strange puck sound.

‘Arrows? If they’re not from the Midnight Circus……!’

The people he saw through mana clairvoyance were rapidly approaching.

As everyone knew about their inclinations, dark elves kill people without even trying to talk to them.

But Leeha did not come empty-handed.

“Waah, quick-quickly-”

The reason wood elves did not like the dark elves was because of their different ‘nature’. All of their dispositions, including food, clothing, and shelters were the opposite to each other, so they had no choice but to fight.

Wood elvess made villages in bright places and lived by eating fruits. And in contrast?

“Captain, it’s this one.”

“Indeed…”

They finally stood in front of Leeha.

They weren’t as tall as the wood elves.

They were rather around the same height as humans.

Their attire was kept minimalistic, as their jet-black skin worthy of their name did not require a separate camouflage.

At first glance, they looked like primitive people, however, their sharp and clear facial features exuded a western charm. ( um Leeha… ( ͡⊙ ⏥ ͡⊙))

“H-hello, I am not an intruder! Uh-”

Leeha quickly pulled out a small box. Of course, it contained meat dishes that were cooked to the best of his abilities.

“-Here! First of all, don’t shoot and please listen to what I have to say first. I-”

Leeha did not care if the dark elves listened to him or not, ashis words poured out like a waterfall.

“-I did not come here as yourenemy. First of all, I can cook delicious food, so it is worth listening to me, and I don’t intent to go anywhere near the dark elf village, I just came here because I was curious about the old tales of the dark elves.”

Leeha thought about increasing intimacy with the dark elves through food. As the duration for the debuff was almost over, his left arm also started moving, and Leeha politely opened the lid of the box with both hands.

“Hmm, this smell!”

“Wow, it’s meat! Meat!”

The dark elves’ expression loosened at the smell of meat. Nice, I got you!

“Everyone stop…… You who inherited the power of the hero, what is this?”

However, the one behind the four dark elves spoke with a heavy voice. All the dark elves who tried to eat Leeha’s food stopped moving.

‘The one who inherited the power of the hero?’

There was no hostility in his voice, but what did he mean by that?

“It’s food, but……. I came here to get to know you guys.”

The dark elf captain looked at Leeha’s eyes. There was no hostility in it. It was a look that gave off a vague feeling.

“You didn’t have to……. Thank you. I will definitely give it to the chief.”

“No, well- but what do you mean about the power of a hero?”

When the captain lifted his chin, one dark elf accepted Leeha’s gift. Leeha’s question was answered at that time.

Why is this so easy?

Weren’t they a race that never talked to any of the other races, didn’t they only attack when they saw them, and curse all living creatures?

Also, are they gonna eat the meat dish??

“The one who carries the wrath of his blood.

A person who proudly announces the will of blood even in times of crisis in the past. We call it the strength of the hero.”

“So what does that- oh!”

Then Leeha realized. Why they were doing this.

They didn’t fall for the meat trick. The item that Leeha has currently, had 『Forbidden Rage』. A skill that was attached to the item!

‘The necklace dropped by Agromni Igor! That’s right, it increases dark elf intimacy!’

Leeha reconfirmed the item’s description of the necklace

Intimacy with the dark elves 100%. Intimacy with the wood elves -50%.

‘Damn it! I didn’t even need to bring food in the first place, I cooked for no reason.’

Seeing Leeha’s expression, the dark elf captain tilted his head.

“What are you doing? I saw you coming here during the day, and I was going to meet you, but then you entered the human village-”

“During the day? Ah! Ahh, yes, yes. It was like that.”

The marks on the tree Leeha saw when he was on his way to Siand Frontier. It must have been the dark elves doing.

They weren’t there to kill him, but to pick him up.

“Then I will guide you to the village, you who inherited the power of the hero.”

“Yes… Please.”

Should he thank Igor? Leeha happily followed the dark elves.

Just how much blood, sweat, and tears did Igor put in to get this necklace? No, there was no need to even think about Igor.

There was no way of knowing how much hard work Luger and Kidd had to put in order to win the favor of the dark elves and enter the village.

(To be continued…)

TL’s corner:

I believe Leeha will get his black coat in the dark elf village. That’s my prediction.

And also, Leeha can be such an airhead sometimes, like I don’t know about other people, but when I play games I always check my gears and what their effects are. It’s just dumb to forget the effect of an item you have. Or maybe that’s just me. :/

(ED note “I very rarely play games, but when I do, it’d probably be very similar to Leeha’s playing style, if you could even call it that. If I come across an item that had effects on it, I’d just skim through it and then forget about it. I’d much prefer to just roam around and do my own thing than follow a game plan. I guess you could say that I’m free-spirited lol.”)
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“That human inherited the power of the hero.”

“A human did?”

“That’s even more awesome! Because that means he had passed all the tests to inherit the power of the hero!”

In a crypt-like place, small dark elf NPCs stuck out their heads.

It was a place not that far from Siand Frontier. The residences of the dark elves were numerous crypts dug into the cliffs.

There were several trees attached to the simple stairs going down the cliff from the ground.

“It’s this close, but it’s still undiscovered-”

“Here, there is a barrier around Takado-Pia, so it’s okay. No one can enter without permission. Those who try to break in by force will be stopped by us.”

“Hmm. I see.”

Seeing the giant ant den that could be seen in a movie’s everywhere, Leeha nodded.

In the first place, even if they found it, like an external barrier, it would be a difficult structure to ‘subjugate’ the dark elves as in the legend.

“Chief, this is Tatar. We have brought the one who inherited the power of the hero.”

Among the numerous crypts, in the huge cave in the center of the cliff, where dizzying patterns were painted around the entrance, the ‘captain’ who led Leeha politely bowed his head.

“Oh, come in, come in.”

“Come in. I’m…”

“Ah, yes.”

Perhaps it should be regarded as an exalted name.

Leeha waved goodbye to Tatar who treated him as if he was his superior, and finally entered the crypt.


The interior was so spacious that one small lamp could not light it all up, but the ‘chief’ didn’t seem to mind.

“Are you the one who inherited the power of the hero? Is the anger of our blood still exuding from it?”

“Hello. Yes, I am Ha Leeha.”

The old dark elf bit the pipe, shook his head and gave a moved expression, making it awkward for Leeha.

He didn’t know what was happening.

“Right, you who inherited the power of the hero. Why did you come here? Sit down, sit down.”

The chief, who was sitting down, had an expression saying ‘Ask me anything.’. Leeha was feeling burdened so he immediately brought up his reason for coming here.

He believed in the power of 100% intimacy.

“I have a question about the 『Arcane Sniper』, do you know anything about it?.”

“……The Arcane Sniper! Is the strength of the hero not enough?”

“Oh- That is right. I need the power of Arcane Sniper.”

After hearing Leeha’s words, the chief took a deep breath.

“I see. To annihilate those damned wood elves, you will need to rely on legends…. However, you who inherited the power of the hero, we don’t actually know much about the Arcane Bullet’s shooter. At least right now.”

Talking about annihilating the wood elves made Leeha feel awkward, but he pretended not to feel anything and asked the chief something.

“’Right now’? Then, does that mean you knew about it in the past?”

“Yes. There was a time. We are a race that likes to record things. However, we lost the records for that legend.”

“Lost? How? Where? Then-”

“It was stolen. It was around a 100 years ago. Even today’s young elves do not know much about the Arcane Sniper. They only remember stories that old people like us could have heard…”

It was stolen? How could it be possible to come all the way to this place and steal it? Besides, if it’s 100 years ago, it’s obvious. It was of a story even before Middle Earth was released.

‘Then what will happen to the quest?’


Leeha, forcing down his ominous premonition, asked a question first.

“Do you know anything about Arcane Sniper?”

“……It’s an old story, a very, very old one.”

The chief deeply inhaled from his pipe and then began to speak. It was a story about the world that could not be found on the Middle Earth website.

The God and the Devil created various races in Middle Earth, they watched the races they created with joy. They were able to enjoy the joy’s of being a creator to their heart’s content. However, conflict soon arose between races. One of the main reason was that the creators was divided into two, Good and Evil. They had to hide from Middle Earth. However the Devil didn’t like it.

He felt wonderful that his creations worshipped him.

The Devil, who did not give in to God’s persuasion, proposed a bet. On the condition that the winner’s words will be unconditionally obeyed.

The bet was simple. Because it was meant to show who had the stronger power.

It was the other party who designated the target. However, it was forbidden to point their strength at each other.

The God and the Devil poured out their power. They didn’t know what the opponent was going to tell them to destroy, so they had to make it as strong as possible.

So the bet started. The Devil designated the target and God destroyed it. Next, God designated the target and the Devil destroyed it…….

They each alternatively showed their power six times, but no creature was able to withstand the power of their creators. They were all destroyed.

And finally, on the Gods seventh turn, the Devil tricked God.

“The seventh target is yourself.”

It meant to destroy himself.

It was nonsense, but it certainly wasn’t against the rules, so even God was unable to say anything. God gave up.(ed: lol)

However, there was no victor, and it was still the turn of God to assign the Devil’s target.

And God naturally set the same goal.

“The seventh target is yourself.”

“You must remember that we decided to listen to the words of the victor.”


“If you win, I will go back to Upper Earth alone. But, if you destroy yourself-”

“-I am not going to beat God, I am the Devil that transcends the Gods.”

However, he did not wait for God’s words to end. The Devil crazely smiled and then shot his own power towards his forehead.

What the Devil created was a bullet-shaped force, and the seventh bullet pierced his forehead.

It wasn’t known how shocked God was. Anyway, it didn’t matter now that the Devil disappeared of his own accord. So God was satisfied and went to Upper Earth.

Even though we could use the powers of God and the Devil in Middle Earth right now, that’s the reason why we couldn’t see them.

“And that is how the story has been told throughout the generations. The Arcane Bullet was the last thing the Devil had created, and the only power that could overcome even God. And the one who handles it is…-”

『Arcane Sniper』…”

Leeha listened to the story as if he was listening to a fairy Tale. However, there were some parts that were a little odd.

“But why did the Devil shoot himself in the head? Besides, why we can’t see them? That’s not really the problem. But there’s also a being called the Demon King-”

“That’s right. That was the Devil’s plan. He removed a part of himself and sealed it away. As time went by, a being that succeeds his will, will awaken it.”

“……Oh……. So then, what about God?”

“Will God break his promise? The devil aimed for that from the beginning. God could never leave Upper Earth. Even he is bound by his own words.”

“In other words, the Demon King…”

“It can be said that the Demon King is the son of the Devil and the Devil himself. That is, according to our legend.”

“Phew……”

Leeha nodded. It was an interesting setup. However, what mattered now was not God or the Devil.

Leeha opened his mouth again.

“So, who is the Arcane Sniper? What does it have to do with the dark elves?”

“We are related. It is said that the Arcane Sniper is the one who had saved our people.”

“What?”

“We were being persecuted. Although we are physically stronger than the wood elves, they were good at using magic powers in a lot of different ways. But most importantly, the dirty and vile wood elves were good at seducing humans who were in the absolute majority. They despise us because we enjoyed eating meat, and because we have dark skin. They tried to kill us by accusing us of being a cursed race that joined hands with the Devil. The one who appeared at that moment, defeated the wood elves and saved us,… Is the Arcane Sniper.”

“I thought he was the first dark elf- no, that was what I hea-”

“No, sometimes such people come. People said.

“Wasn’t the Arcane Sniper the first dark elf? Or didn’t the dark elves send out the Arcane Sniper during the second Human-Demon war?”……

“I see.”

Leeha somehow wanted to laugh. The story of Luger and Kidd was clear.

“According to our legend, arcane Sniper saved our race.”

“Who was the Arcane Sniper?”

“He was a human.”

“Human……. How is that possible?”

“It was a long time ago. My great-great-great-grandfather heard from his great-great-great-grandfather……

“Hmm…”

Leeha nodded. It meant that it wasn’t during the second Human-Demon war.

“How did that human become the Arcane Sniper?”

“We are a record-loving race, and we had a book in which it recorded that story, including conversations of one kind or the other-”

“I see! If you could just show it to me-”

“-It was stolen 100 years ago.”

“Ah…”

Right, it was stolen 100 years ago. At that moment, a notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『Find the lost records of the Dark Elves』

Description: ‘The one who inherited the heroes’ power, can you find our race’s stolen records? Materials containing the wisdom of our ancestors, including the Arcane Sniper, must be recovered. However, we have already turned our backs to the world and cannot go out to search ourselves……. So please. If you are the descendant of the Arcane Sniper, no, if you want to be the descendant of the Arcane Sniper, help us, like the human of legends.’

With 100% intimacy, the dark elf chief is giving you a direct quest.

Content: Return the Dark Elves’ records and compensation including the journal of the Arcane Sniper Reward: ??

– Would you like to accept?

‘It’s here.’

From the moment he heard the chief’s story, he had expected it.

From the hidden rewards he hadn’t seen in a long time, to the content of the quest that he actually had to find and return the item. Leeha guessed that the difficulty would not be easy.

“If there is any other information or content related to the Arcane Sniper, I will let you know. Can you bring them back instead?”

“Where…… Should I go to get it back?”

“……Haaa……”

The chief sighed.

After exhaling for a long and heavy breath, as if he was grieving over the plight of his people, he had difficulty parting his lips.

“His name is Kaztor. A dark elf full of strange curiosity and with a twisted desire since childhood. I think he must have set up a place where the eyes of the other races could not reach, but……”

“It was a long time ago, so you couldn’t be sure.”

“That’s right.”

In the end, this quest meant that Leeha needed to find Kaztor’s lair and retrieve the records from there. Anyway, there was no reason to give up.

Actually, it was not a musketeer’s linked quest.

Leeha calmly pressed the accept button.

“Do you have any idea where Kaztor’s location could be?”

“Even if I did, it would have been 100 years ago, of course, it wouldn’t be there now…”

The chief rose from his seat and moved to the depths of the crypt.

The crypt was so deep that even the light of a candle could not reach it, and the figure of the chief disappeared completely from Leeha’s view.

A rustling sound was heard from the deep darkness, and a moment later, the chief reappeared and now held a small marble in his hand.

“If you use this, you will be able to find traces of him.”

“Is it a crystal ball?”

“Our race is not close to mana, but Kaztor was different. From a young age, thanks to his understanding of mana, and extraordinary dexterity, he used to create strange things. He was smart enough to create something to use if he went missing or was captured by the wood elves. A 7-year-old kid made this while saying that…”

The guy who made this when he was seven-years-old ran away 100 years ago…. Leeha was doubtful whether a crystal ball made 107 years ago would still work, but anyway, he received the item and put it in his bag.

“It doesn’t seem really smart to runaway without realizing that your village still has something that could be used to track him, but anyway. I will make sure to bring it back.”

“Please. The one who inherited the power of the hero. Our clan always repay kindness and enmity. I will never forget you.”

The chief held Leeha’s hand tightly.

Leeha went out of the crypt and to the dark elf village, who welcomed him excessively.

‘I think I have satisfied Browless’ quest now ……”

After walking through the forest toward Siand Frontier, Leeha fiddled with the crystal ball.

All Browless wanted was to hear the legend of Arcane Sniper from the mouth of the Dark Elves. However, it was not because he wanted to know the story of their birth or the secret of their power, but because he was curious about the Arcane Sniper during the second Human-Demon war.

‘At least I can be sure with the information I have now. That the Arcane Sniper during the second Human-Demon war was not a dark elf.’

And that the circumstances of the dark elves and the circumstances that Browless knew were different.

The truth was already different compared to the rumors that the Arcane Sniper was a dark elf. Since the beginning was different, all information up to now is bound to diverge.

‘Browless’s quest is already cleared, but the problem is-’

These other quests.

Chasing after Kaztor, who ran away 100 years ago, and finding Fernand, who was wandering around unexplored areas, was nothing short of finding needle in the dessert.

“Phew……. As soon as the sun rises, I’ll have to go the Hell Anvil.”

After logging out at Siand Frontier, Leeha will only log in again after taking a long break and eating.

The sun was rising in Middle Earth, but it was midnight in the real world.

(To be continued…)

“Editors note: This chapter was a pain. Trying to edit the titles and make it more coherent made me want to roll my eyes backwards, just know I tried my best.”
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“Knock. knock, knock.”

Go away! Please just go away!

When they heard the knocking sound, the people inside the forge stopped what they were doing. Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers knew it was Leeha even without hearing his voice. The shutter for the Bottleneck’s blacksmith was firmly lowered.

“Huh, how did you know it was me? Please open the door. Are you done making what I requested of you last time?”

Don’t know, go away! How could you ask us to make something like this?

“Hurry up and open it! I have all the money to pay you.”

The inside of the forge quieted down for a while and druuut, the shutter went up.

Even a dwarf could not help but be in need of money in a society filled with infinite competition.

It was impossible to ignore Leeha as a client.

“……Come in.”

They were not covered in soot like last time, but they still looked emaciated every time they took on one of his commissions, Leeha felt sympathy for them for a moment as he saw them losing weight.

But only for a moment.

“What about the scope?

“Oh! It’s done! By the way, why do you look like that-”

Bottleneck pointed at the table.

Including Leeha’s special scope boasting a smooth shape, bullets and various items were showing off their lustrous appearance.

Unlike Leeha who admired the items, Bottleneck was trembling.

“……My belly is smaller than my belly button now.”


“What?”

“Damn it! Everything was fine! But grafting Quiquero’s crystalline lens into that nonsensical object costs more than the commission fee! I-I’d rather lose my commission- if I had done that then I could have saved money-”

“B-Boss! But then, the boss’s name would be tarnished……”

“Uwaaaa, uwaaaaah!”

The Beard Brothers stopped Bottleneck as he roared and his beard trembled.

Judging from his words, the cost that was spent to craft the scope, including the experiment, was a greater amount than what they were commissioned for.

“That……. That’s sad. I’m really sorry, Bottleneck-ssi.”

Leeha did his best to apologize.

Of course, Leeha had no intention of paying excess expenses. (ed: You mean paying them for their work Leeha?)

The trio of dwarves, who had been rolling around for a long time, breathed heavily after consuming their stamina and went closer to Leeha.

“You have to handle it with care.”

“The performance is slightly better than what you requested. If we understood it correctly.”

The Beard Brothers took turns talking to Leeha. But Leeha could not help but be surprised by their words. The requested product required considerable technical skills, but they were able to make a product better than that.

“I want to try it out right away. Ah! Next time, can you make a night vision, and then-”

“Waahh, go away! I won’t accept any more requests from you right now! Bring me the salt! The saaalt!”

Bottleneck’s face started to turn red again.

Leeha placed the money bag on the table and quickly got out of there while the Beard Brothers went to stop Bottleneck.

“Anyway, thank you! Seriously thank you! Kuhahaha.”

Evil guy! He’s worse than Browless!!

As Bottleneck’s long roar echoed throughout the forge in the Adamantine Mountain.


“Haha, no matter what it is, I’m always satisfied.”

Leeha was only able to properly inspect the items he ordered after arrived in an alley next to Hell Anvil, where there were fewer people.

A fine-tuned device for horizontal and vertical adjustments, an objective lens larger than the 35mm main tube, and even the well-polished Quiquero’s lens.

‘I expected it to have 25 times magnification, but isn’t this better than that……?’

Leeha attached the rail he ordered along with the scope and mounted the scope on it.. He even handled the scope by adjusting the magnification.

He measured the distance between Hell Anvil and the side of the Adamantine mountain towards its peak.

‘I can’t see up to the peak, but is the distance to that rock about 600m? 650m is already the bare mountain range. There were so few trees in the way that he was able to see a distant rock.

‘Then lets zoom in- ah!’

As soon as he raised it to the maximum magnification towards 600m ahead, his eyes suddenly got dizzy. If the magnification exceeded 10x, the entire image shook even with the slightest of movements.

‘If it’s shaking like this……’ Taking his eyes off the scope, Leeha attached the bipod he ordered to the barrel of the Black Bass.

As a smithy specialized in small tools, the bipod and rail were made to be secured and perfectly installed according to Leeha’s orders, which made him satisfied.

And this time, on a wooden box of a suitable height, Leeha supported the Black Bass’s body.

The gun was completely fixed and there was no blurring of sight, so he looked at the large rock near the top of the Adamantine Mountains, which he aimed at earlier.

“Oh my……”

『Caution: Falling Rocks』

Leeha caught sight of the words that he didn’t even know were written on the rocks.

It felt like he was looking at something from 15 to 20 meters ahead. What did it mean to be able to see an object at a distance of 600m with a line of sight similar to 15 to 20m?

‘More than 30 times maximum magnification…’

It wasn’t an astronomical telescope.

Since it was small enough to be attached to the rifle, it should be enough to adjust the distance from the muzzle horizontally and vertically to provide a shooting distance. Of course, it was necessary to prepare for fog and dust.


Rather than simply observing the stars at high magnification, it meant that it was an item that was always attached and carried, and can be used in the battlefield! It was not that uncommon for a scope to have 30x maximum magnification.

‘R-really. It would be possible to see the surface of the moon with this scope.’

Leeha felt the performance of the scope to be ridiculous. Breaking the Seal for the 『Black Bass』 quest wouldn’t be a problem if he had this scope.

-What did you go to Hell Anvil for? I’ve come all the way to Siand!

‘Huh?’

It was around the time that Leeha was staring blankly at the scope that his messages suddenly pinged.

-Jin Gonggong-nim? What’s going on? Siand?

-Yes. I was in the process of raising my affinity nearby, when I heard a rumor about you, so I contacted you.

Siand Frontier was like a gateway to unexpected western areas.

For druids, who needed to increase their affinity by approaching animals and plants, it meant that unexplored areas had more significance.

In particular, unexplored areas were not yet marked on the map.

Because it was a place where one had to travel only with one’s own experiences and memories, they have to be more sensitive to small details and rumors when they occasionally encounter users or when they stop by a pioneering base.

-Well! I see. What was the rumor?

-Someone had a fight with the Midnight Circus and disappeared together with Lee Jiwon, and used a huge gun. Keke, when did you become close with Lee Jiwon? That’s great.

-Ah. That. We’re not friends, and I don’t know him that well. It’s just a coincidence that we met.

There was no need to bring up the story of the Soul Link skill, so Leeha just laughed and tried to let the subject pass.

– So, when will you come back to the frontier? I’m waiting for Leeha-nim.

– Me?

– I need your help. Haha.

Jin Gonggong asked Leeha with a mischievous laugh. Hearing his story, something came to Leeha’s mind.

-Okay. Let’s help each other then.

-What do you need?

-You know. Haha, Jin Gonggong-nim’s wings. What if he utilized the maneuverability of the Golden Eagle? What if he could quickly explore the frontier at the right height?

He didn’t even need to search thoroughly.

He needed to find the area where Kaztor’s crystal ball responds first, and then conduct an accurate search. That alone will shorten the exploration time of the unexplored regions that have to be explored on foot by more than 10 times.

– I see, you’re looking for something. Okay, deal!

– Deal! Then wait for me, I’ll be there soon.

Leeha immediately tore the scroll.

After visiting Lee Jiwon’s secret base, the Siand Frontier was already stored in his crystal ball. It was such a difficult place to get to the first time around, but now it would only take him 10 seconds.

“Leeha-nim!”

“Jin Gonggong! Oh, it looks like you changed your equipment again?”

“It’s nothing. I just finished a quest and got some new ones. Hehe. How are you doing? Didn’t Leeha-nim’s equipment also change a bit? I think your rifle has gotten thicker! It’s like there’s a bunch of stuff hanging around.”

“It’s okay. I just got a little bit stronger than before, I’ll just tell you what it is later.”

Jin Gonggong was quite the sharp guy. It was in the form of musket when he aimed at Czar members in the snowy mountains, but at that time, 『Black Bass: SASR』 did not have any bullets at the time, so it could not be used.

‘Even so, his eyesight is quite good. Muskets are originally longer than regular rifles. The Black Bass had turned into a modern sniper rifle so its length is similar… It wasn’t strange to notice the scope, but he was able to notice the difference in thickness between a musket and a sniper rifle?’

Leeha wondered if his eyesight improved as Jin Gonggong changed into animals such as eagles, swallows, and other animals. In any case, he was a user with superior skills compared to his level as expected.

Leeha was only able to get to the main topic after greeting Jin Gonggong and admiring each other.

“-So, would you like to kill some monster’s around you?”

“Yes. Normally, I would just avoid approaching them but…. It’s a bit too much this time.”

Jin Gonggong’s expression darkened. Jin Gonggong was strong enough to ‘fight’ with a snow rabbit barehanded, but it was difficult for him to explore unexplored areas alone.

“Actually, monsters in high-level areas are basically high-level users, aren’t they?”

“That’s right. So it’s even harder. I have to approach the target quietly, avoid the eyes of the monsters, but the target doesn’t just stay in one place-”

“Druids are having a hard time too. What is it this time? Is it a rabbit that calls its colleague again?”

“If it was a snow rabbit, it’s a fairly modest animal. But the thing I need to get acquainted with this time is a plant.”

“A plant?”

You can make acquaintances with plants? Leeha tilted his head, but Jin Gonggong just let out a big sigh.

“It’s a man-eating plant, you’ll know when you see it.”

“Ah…”

Leeha nodded. The fate of a druid is that he must approach without hesitation even if it’s something that you never want to be friends with. Leeha could clearly see Jin Gonggong’s suffering.

“Let’s go to the mountain first.”

Leeha and Jin Gonggong walked towards the mountain road which stretched from the Siand Frontier.

In order to fly, Jin Gonggong needed to ride the air currents from as high up as possible.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha grabbed and checked Kaztor’s crystal ball in case he missed it. It was difficult for him to open his eyes properly as strong wind hit his eyeballs, but Leeha could tell that the crystal ball didn’t respond.

“Hmm…… It isn’t around here.”

There! Jin Gonggong-nim, turn around and go to the cannibal zone!”

Piiik-!

Flaaap, the golden eagle flapped its huge wings and changed direction. The movement of gravity that applied to Leeha’s body was quite oppressive, and he clenched his teeth.

 “As expected, it isn’t near the Siand Frontier.”

If that was the case, the dark elves would have found it themselves before giving Leeha a quest like this.

He checked again just in case, but again, Kaztor’s base isn’t near the frontier.

‘I don’t know how far the distance is before it would react. But I guess all we can do is search blindly.’

In addition, there were problems with the size and air current of the eagle, so low-flying was impossible.

If the two of them lost their lift while flying, they would fall to the ground. If they fell at this speed without any safety equipment, it would pretty much be instant death.

Jin Gonggong flew to the direction Leeha indicated.

Leeha looked at the crystal ball again, but there was still no reaction. He nodded.

“Okay, now! Let’s go to Kijung Gonggong’s place!”

Piiiik-!

Jin Gonggong roared loudly and raised their altitude.

As they flew, Leeha saw the scenery unfolding under them. The unexplored areas that did not appear on the map and cannot easily be seen through screenshots.

There were many dense forests and rugged terrain, enough to truly be called Mother Nature.


A mountain is a mountain, a valley is a valley, a river is a river…….

‘When I think about walking around here…’

It looked like a small cliff, but it was a cliff that couldn’t be crossed by simply jumping over.

How many kilometers would Leeha need to detour to get to a place that was less than 20 meters in a straight line? If it was anywhere else in Middle Earth, it would have been a place where there would have been a bridge, but the area around the frontier truly was unexplored.

How long have they been flying in Jin Gonggong’s golden eagle form? Maybe two hours?

A huge forest appeared in front of Leeha.

A denser and larger forest than any other forest he had ever seen.

It was a place where there was a river flowing below and looked more like a jungle. Even though he was flying in the air, he could feel the moisture coming from below.

“Just like the Amazon!”

Piiiik-!

Jin Gonggong also roared in agreement with Leeha’s words.

30 minutes after entering the Amazon-like terrain, Jin Gonggong began to quickly increase the altitude again.

-Can you see that?

-What is it?

-It’s like a flower bud that pops up from among the trees, over there.

-Ah, yes. Is it close by?

-No. That’s it.

“……What?”

Leeha looked up at Jin Gonggong, but that was all.

A lump protruded out of the huge, tall trees. The moment Leeha was about to say something, the head of the man-eating plant flinched.


Like a creature with a pulse

“Ugh, that’s so gross! What is that? That’s not a man-eating plant, that’s a world tree! Why is it so big?”

-The world tree… it does seem similar. The explanation would be that it’s one of the seeds spread by the world tree…. Anyway, that thing itself doesn’t move. The problem is the surrounding monsters. That plant tamed all the surrounding monsters to protect itself.

-Taming?

-No. By scattering something like hypnosis pollen……. Monsters catch humans and push them into its plants body. Then, the body fluid of the plant causes the human body to-

-S-Stop! Stop! I know that it’s one of the worst deaths on Middle Earth, so you don’t need to describe it.

How does it feel for the body to get corroded at 50% assimilation rate? Leeha cut off Kijung Gonggong’s gruesome description.

-So, while I’m getting to know the plant. I just need you to stop the surrounding monsters from approaching me.

-Hmm, can’t you get rid of the hypnosis pollen?

-That’s it. To do that, I have to find the organ that spews out the hypnotic pollen from the plant and get rid of it… that’s gonna be pretty hard. It’s the organ that’s attached to the head. Take a look around now!

Piiiik-!

When Jin Gonggong signaled, Leeha turned his head. At the top of the huge mound, there was something wriggling.

He could even see that it was constantly spewing pollen.

-Look. Leeha-nim, look to your left. You have to rip it off-

-Okay.

And as soon as he looked, he understood the situation. He knew what he needed to do.

-Can you hover for a bit?

-No. Not while the golden eagle form is activated- wait, what are you trying to do?

-If I tear that off, the hypnosis will stop. Even though I don’t know how many monsters there are, I know that it will take a long time to kill them one by one.

Leeha corrected his posture and took out the Black Bass. It was only then that Jin Gonggong noticed what Leeha was doing with his feet.


-Here? In the air? Your gonna shoot now?

-I shouldn’t miss. Jin Gonggong-nim, if you move, I will curse you.

-Wait! What! No, going further is dangerous. Even if it is Leeha-nim, at this distance….

-I don’t even want to go any closer anyway. How can we approach such a disgusting monster?

The golden eagle’s claws held Leeha in a prone position, so at first glance, it looked like Leeha was in a prone shooting position.

However, lying face down was to stop even the slightest trembling by keeping the body as close to the ground. It was because the accuracy increases when all the muscles in the body are relaxed and the trembling was eliminated by being one with the rifle.

But now?

Even during a simple flight, the shaking caused by the wind was considerable, and it was even more so when the golden eagle flapped its wings, its body shook.

It was only the posture that was similar, but it was more accurate to say that Leeha was shooting while standing. No, if he shot while standing, he could control his body with his own will and set the timing of his shot. (ed: was he standing or laying down, he can’t do both.)

Rather than standing up, it was more like grabbing a gun, running, and then shooting. It would be the same level as that.

-If you accidentally touch it and fail, there will be an uproar! Leeha-nim, it’s okay, we have to approach him, and my affinity-

-Don’t worry, just be patient.

Leeha calmed Jin Gonggong down, and calmly examined his condition.

‘The important thing in helicopter sniping is whether you could support it. There’s nothing more foolish than a sniper exposing himself in an open area. But now……’

The shooting environment is the worst, but in terms of the external environment, it’s the best. At least at this distance and height, there would be no monsters that could threaten Leeha. Then the only remaining problem would be solved by him.

‘But it doesn’t change the fact that I could still miss. If I missed, there would be a riot……’

The surrounding monsters will become enraged making it even harder for them later.

‘But if the attack power is too strong, I might accidentally kill the plant.’

In this case, the overwhelming attack power became a burden. He can’t kill it, but he couldn’t afford to miss it either, and only the organ that sprays the pollen had to be removed.

He was being held by the claws of the flying eagle.

“Phew……”

The distance was 300m at most. At this ‘short’ distance, the scope was rather obtrusive. Leeha controlled his breathing and placed the barrel of the Black Bass in the gap between the golden eagle’s feet.

‘Eagle’s Eye.’

At this distance, he could shoot it with his naked eyes, but it didn’t mean that he didn’t need information on the surrounding.

What was the current speed of the golden eagle? How often did the golden eagle flap its wings? It was in the middle of circling around the plant. What was the wind direction and speed when the trigger was pulled?

-Fly straight. No need to slow down, don’t worry about me. Like now. Keep going straight.

-O-okay.

Flap- flap-

Jin Gonggong circled around the man-eating plant.

When the circle with a radius of 300m was drawn, all the necessary information was ready in Leeha’s mind.

“Haa…”

And flap, flap, the wings of the golden eagle finished flapping its wings.

7 seconds until the next trembling, the distance was a round 280m, the wind direction north-northwest, about 13m/s due to increase in wind speed due to altitude.

The fate of a sniper who must calm his trembling body and blood flowing through his veins regardless of his will.

‘Calm Mind.’

It was only 3 seconds, but 3 seconds was a necessity for a sniper.

When Leeha felt his body floating in the air hardening as if lying on the flat ground, before he could even think ‘now’, Leeha pulled the trigger.

The golden eagle, startled by the loud gunfire, roared for a long time.

Babam-!

『Achievement: Raining on monsters(B)』

Congratulations! You hit a target at a distance of 250m or more from the altitude of 50m or higher. Life on the ground would be killed without even being able to counterattack. Infantry, knights, mages, and even monsters will fear you.

Reward: Agility +13

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『The monster that makes rain』.

The first three users to get this achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame. The effect will be increased to 200%. Effect: Agility +26

“Oh? An achievement?”

Leeha closed the notification windows first. As the achievement appeared, the result was natural.

The red sack above the man-eating plant’s lump had burst.

-AMAAAAAAZIIIIING!! LEEHA-NIM!!! What! How did you hit it?

Piiiiik-!

Jin Gonggong roared with the eagle’s cry and whispered simultaneously. He was so excited that Leeha could feel it from beneath him.

“Phew, actually, it was 50-50! On a chopper- no, anyway! This is great!”

He had only done sniper training from a helicopter once. Of course, even then, he still hit his target. (ed: well aren’t you a cocky one( ͡❛ ᴥ ͡❛) )

However, shooting from a helicopter hovering at 30m was a different story than shooting while being held by an eagle’s claw at more than 50m.

‘The hall of fame also appeared. Besides, I was the first this time! Well, when I think about Luger and Kidd, it’s only natural.’

Who would have thought of using a druid’s transformation skill? Even if they knew, they wouldn’t be able to find someone to help them. Most importantly, the transformation of a human druid is not that big.

They won’t be able to find the unique combination of Giant + Druid.

“Hehe, are the monsters around released from their hypnosis? You can sneak in quietly and increase intimacy now, right?”

There was no need to answer. Piiiik-! The eagle began to lower his altitude, roaring pleasantly.

After a while, they stood in front of the huge man-eating plant.

“Wow, Leeha-nim! That was really great. I only called you to catch some brainwashed monsters!”

“It wasn’t bad, right?”

“Not bad at all! It’s really cool! Awesome! The best!”

Jin Gonggong put two thumbs up! And smiled. He was overreacting, but it wasn’t a bad feeling.

“The monsters didn’t even see us, so there’s no way they would come…. I’ll walk around for a while. You go on ahead.”

“Yes. I will whisper to you once the ritual is complete.”

Leeha took out Kaztor’s crystal ball and looked around. Of course, he was as careful as possible to not drag any of the monsters’ aggro.

He couldn’t figure out the reaction range of the crystal ball, so he had no choice but to watch it as much as possible.

‘I don’t know if there was no reaction because we were in the air, or it just didn’t respond.’

He wandered around a bit and looked at the crystal ball, but there was no reaction.

In the end, it was impossible to conclude whether there was no reaction because Leeha was in the air, or whether the base was simply not close by.

‘Well, if I look around more, I will find it eventually- but I’ll have to start doing something else after Jin Gonggong’s work is complete.’

(To be continued…)
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At least the little clue that he had won’t suddenly disappear.

“Jin Gonggong-nim! After that -oh ahhh? W-what are you doing? What are you doing?”

“Uuhh一 who—— Pwah! Who are you trying to find?”

“No! What are you doing right now!”

“I’m increasing my affinity. I still need some time to finish, please wait a while. Whoops!”

Jin Gonggong took another deep breath and shoved himself into the gaps of the man-eating plant.

 “……Didn’t you say that if you go in there you’ll get eaten?”

After having me keep the monsters away, did he need to nourish the plant himself in order to raise his affinity?

Leeha thought it was a good thing he didn’t choose the druid class.

After about 10 minutes had passed, Jin Gonggong walked out of the man-eating plant.

“Are you done?”

“Yep! Normally, only druids that are level 170 and above are able to complete the quest. Thanks to Leeha-nim, I can complete it early.”

After Jin Gonggong removed the corrosive liquid of the man-eating plant, he started putting on the clothes that he had taken off.

He was no longer the same druid who was shy about dancing to summon a crow. Now there was only the druid who had fully adapted to Middle Earth.

Leeha smiled at the disparity.

“Do you get something good when you complete it early?”

“I do! It’s this. I’ll give you one as well.”

“What is this?”


“It’s an item. Hihi. It’s essential for the druid’s main quest later, and I have already secured the amount I need.”

Jin Gonggong smiled and handed Leeha something like a small fruit.

『Rare Seed of the Contaminated World Tree』

Effect: You can control a monster for 6 hours when it is fed with this.

Description: The spores released by the Corrupted World Tree all over the continent are said to eat away nutrients and deeply take root. Plants germinated from spores use hypnotic pollen to control the living things in its surrounding and move according to its will, and there is a rumor that grinding its seeds can be used as hypnotic powder.

“……Taming item?”

“That’s right. But it’s not just a taming item. It’s a rare one! It’s a pity that it’s only temporary, but even a high-level monster can be tamed with this.”

“Certainly. Then give me some more.”

“Huh?”

“You only gave me one. Can’t you give me three or four more.”

“I-I can’t give you that. I have to use the rest for when I’m completing my quests-”

“Kek, just kidding. Now that Jin Gonggong-nim has finished your quest, will you help me now?”

When Jin Gonggong started crying, Leeha went to the main point. Because there was someone he needed to find using Jin Gonggong’s eagle form. (ed: why are you like this (─︣ ㅅ ─᷅) )

“Ah! Who did you say you were going to meet earlier? Who?”

“Fernand.”

“Fernand…… Who is that?”

“The Pioneering King.”

“The Pioneering King…… Pioneering King? You’re going to meet the Pioneering King?”

Jin Gonggong’s eyes widened.

Who was the Pioneering King? He wasn’t someone you could meet just because you wanted to. The Pioneering King insisted on solo playing so much that he could be considered a phantom rather than an actual user, who cares only about expanding the map, and doesn’t care about hunting or quests!


“I know what you’re thinking, but we don’t know each other. We don’t have a prior agreement to meet up.”

“T-then what? Leeha-nim is great, but, if you’re not acquainted with the Pioneering King…. In other words, your gonna go around the entire continent looking for Fernand, right?”

Jin Gonggong’s words would have been correct in any other instance.

Meeting Fernand meant going around the whole continent at least once. Still, there were many cases where even then he couldn’t be found. However, it was a different story now.

“No, no. I got information from a reliable source, so don’t worry about it and transform.”

“Hmmm..”

“Ah. Also on the way there, I will do a few more aerial shots like before. Transform quickly.”

Jin Gonggong made a skeptical expression, but Leeha didn’t care about that. Right now, while on the way to find Fernand, he focused more on his ‘aerial shooting’.

***

-Do you think it will work?

-Don’t talk to me right now-!

Baaang!

The bullet hit the tree with a popping sound. The four-handed troll, who was resting on the wooden pole, looked around in surprise, but could not find Leeha and Jin Gonggong.

“Ah…… It’s getting harder now.”

It wasn’t just because Jin Gonggong talked and disturbed his concentration.

Leeha acknowledged that his skills were not yet up to snuff. If he shot one or two more shots at the four-handed troll, he would be able to kill it. However, that’s not what Leeha wanted right now.

‘I could get my achievement right now, but……. If I can’t one-shot it at this level when I need it, there’s a lot of achievement. I shouldn’t be aiming for something like that. I need to practice more.’

-Shall we do it one more time?

-No, it’s okay. I’ll practice a bit more and do it again later. Ah, will you help me when that time comes? I wasn’t able to hit because of Jin Gonggong-nim.

-What? Cough, okay. Then, let’s go first!


Piiiii-!

Jin Gonggong roared and flew away.

After finishing his quest on the man-eating plant, they flew to the place that Lee Jiwon told Leeha. He succeeded in two shots.

‘60m at 300m, and 70m at 350m.’

They were B+ and A- respectively, and no one had claimed them yet, so Leeha was the first to achieve the Hall of Fame.

He only got two achievements but his agility rose by 87 points from the hall of fame.

‘It means that every increase in height by 10m, and the distance increases by 50m, this-.’

In the case of the four-handed troll, Leeha tried to shoot from the distance of 400 at a whopping 80m in the air, it meant that he was lacking in practice.

‘It feels like the difficulty is increasing exponentially. That shot just now was much more difficult than shooting from a distance of 1000m from the ground. Even if I have the Black Bass, I shouldn’t be this anxious about aiming.’

The instability of aiming was natural, and the difference between wind direction and wind speed only increased.

How about calculating the trajectory according to speed?

The golden eagle wasn’t a helicopter. Since it was impossible to slowly maintain the altitude while flying slowly, as the distance increased, the calculation associated with the speed of the golden eagle became more complex.

Leeha was reminded once again that his special attribute was 『Accuracy』, not pierce or rapid-fire. In order to increase his accuracy, it was necessary to study the method of increasing aiming stability, which was more important than anything else for him.

-Leeha-nim, what you described earlier seems to be around here, but can you even see anything?

-Hmm, hold on a sec.

Unexplored areas have their own geographical features. There are jungles like the Amazon with cannibals, deserts, snowfields, rocky wasteland, etc. There were quite a few overlapping places among them, but they had arrived at a place where the information was roughly the same as what Leeha heard.

‘Lee Jiwon saw Fernand around 5 days ago.’

It meant about a day in the real world.

If he was simply hunting, he may have already moved spots. But who was he? It was none other than Fernand the King of Pioneering.

He was a user who wanted to record all the maps meticulously and would not move easily.

-Oh right. It’s over there. A huge structure made of black earth, goblin-like trees, and horns. But why were the horns so big?

-It’s called Dragon Bones.

-Whaat? Dragon Bones? Then what, will a dragon pop out?

-I don’t know about that. Anyway, I heard that Fernand was looking for something like that near the bone temple-

-Leeha-nim! If a dragon comes out, we will both die! We won’t even be able to run away!

-Yes, yes, so let’s find Fernand quickly so that won’t happen.

Jin Gonggong’s voice was thin and muffled with anxiety, but Leeha simply dismissed him. Lee Jiwon already came and went through here, and Fernand must also be nearby, so where would the dragon come from?

‘If there was one, they would have died too-’ No, will they really die? Leeha saw the sheer strength of the 2nd in the world ranking. His skill could really cut down a dragon. Then what about Fernand? He may not be good at fighting, but he should be second to none when it comes to running away. After all, he is the user that knows the most about the regions in Middle Earth.

‘Ah, maybe……’

Anxiety suddenly took over. And at that moment, something caught Leeha’s eyes.

‘Hmm?’

“Ohhh! T-this, this, this!”

-Why? Is it a dragon? Did a dragon come out?

Hearing Leeha making a fuss, Jin Gonggong’s flight faltered for a moment. However, contrary to his worries, Leeha’s voice was cheerful and bright.

“Crystal ball! The crystal ball! Uwaah, what is this?!”

Leeha smiled and held up the crystal ball. A faint light leaked from Kaztor’s crystal ball, which hadn’t responded before.

“Oh, it’s gone.”

When the distance from the bone structure increased a little, the light disappeared. In other words, it was clear where this crystal ball responding to.

-What do you mean crystal ball? Did Fernand give it to you? I don’t see anything nearby.

-No! This is for another quest, anyway. Let’s go around a little bit more first, and let’s get off at that huge bone.

-G-get off? What am I, a taxi?

-Driver-nim, let’s go!

-If you keep doing this, you’ll have to start paying me a premium fee!

There’s no high ground around.

Once the transformation is released, they will have to move quite a bit until Jin Gonggong can transform again into a golden eagle, and the reaction point of the crystal ball won’t move anyway, so Leeha decided to search for Fernand leisurely instead.

They flew to the border of the black ground, which looked like compost had been sprinkled on the ground, for a long time and looked around, but they did not see anyone.

The only thing that caught their eyes from time to time were monsters.

Of course, the golden eagle Jin Gonggong and Leeha were able to see clearly by using the ‘Eagle’s Eye’.

‘They are undead.’

If they were monsters that were missing flesh and discolored skin, it was obvious.

However, the only difference from other places was that the size of the undead they were bloody and there were skeleton knights that were riding skeleton horses. They looked much bigger than your average skeletons or zombies.

(To be continued…)
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-Leeha-nim, did you find anything?

-No! Whispering isn’t even possible, well, we’ll have to go down and look first. Let’s go near the giant bone carcass!

While flying, Leeha tried to whisper to Fernand again just in case, but the result was the same.

As he tried before, there was only an empty ringing. He probably blocked everyone from whispering to him.

‘If that’s the case, he should have only played single-player games. Why was he playing such a massive online player-based game?’

He had doubts, but it was not the time to worry about such things. It was said that there were as many ways to enjoy Middle Earth as there were users.

Jin Gonggong canceled his transformation near the Dragon Bone. There were no monsters near the huge structure made of dragon bones.

The ones from far away looked at Leeha and Jin Gonggong, but that was all. They didn’t bother coming over.

“Whoa, what do we do now? The monsters-”

“How come they’re not coming over?.”

“Oh…… that’s right.”

It could be because of the power of the dragon bone. The two men did not know the exact reasons, but they could make a rough guess.

“Should we try looking for him first?”

Leeha held Kaztor’s crystal ball. Jin Gonggong nodded.

Unlike before, the crystal ball was emitting a much stronger light.

‘The reaction is different depending on the distance. With this much light……”

Two people held a GPS detector-like crystal ball and walked around the dragon bone. Although it looked similar, the intensity of light was slightly different depending on the location.

“I think this area gives the strongest light. What do you think?”


Leeha looked at Jin Gonggong with a frown and asked. However, Jin Gonggong did not reply. He was obsessed with looking at the dragon bone.

“How big is this thing? With how large the bones are… the skin and muscle should be similar, right? Are all normal dragons this big? What do you think Leeha-nim?”

“Hmmm, no, let’s focus on this for a moment. I need to finish this quest first”

“Yes, yes. Wow, but it really is big. Had it still been alive, wouldn’t it give a lot of experience and affinity?…… I have seen dragons a few times in the frontier-”

Leeha laughed as he looked at the druid who wasn’t even listening to his words. Well, it was considering the nature of his job.

‘The closer we get to the center, the brighter it gets. As if these huge bones are hiding something…’

It was probably the part where the hind legs and near its rib cage.

Although not all of the original form has been preserved, the area was estimated based on the approximate shape and size, and Leeha approached the center.

Kaztor’s crystal ball was clearly getting brighter and brighter.

“Hmm?”

And after a while, the light of the crystal ball faded again. As he turned back, wondering if he walked past it, the crystal ball brightened. 

‘I think it’s near here……’

Leeha looked around but he saw nothing. He was at the center surrounded by the remaining dragon bones. That was all. Leeha scratched his head at the open place that was nothing like a building.

‘I stayed here, moved over here, and the crystal ball reacted- no, it can’t be. It is here for sure. It’s here.’

Leeha suddenly raised his head. The shape of the dragon’s horn looked like a roof. He wondered if there was anything above him.

“Jin Gonggong-nim! Turn into a swallow and fly up there-”

“Huh? L-Leeha-nim!”

Jin Gonggong, who was fiddling with the bones as if he was touching a statue, cried out. Red light emanated from the dragon bone he just touched.

“What is it going- Oh-Ohhh!”

Ruumble……


The sudden vibration made Leeha step back in shock.

The ground where he was standing before started opening up. A stairway leading down was revealed.

“Haa, haa.”

“……D-Did I do well?”

The druid was also calming his heart beside Leeha, who held his chest.

“Is it a dungeon?”

“Let’s go in first. I don’t think you would get any experience, but we should at least party-up.”

Leeha sent a party request to Jin Gonggong. The level difference was still quite huge, but the level compensation for clearing the dungeon would be divided.

With a chuckle, Leeha pulled the bolt and loaded it.

“Shall we go?”

“Yes. I’ll take the lead. I could recognize the ordinary traps through smell, but be careful. If it’s a hidden area in the dragon bones, there may be traps that I won’t be able to see……”

“Smell?”

Jin Gonggong started casting without answering Leeha’s question.

“Polymorph: Grizzly!”

The giant soon turned into a muscular bear and carefully advanced ahead. There were three transformations that Leeha had already seen. Besides this one, Jin Gonggong could bring out the beast’s abilities to its full potential.

“……As expected, aside from getting eaten by a man-eating plant, druids are better.”

Leeha commented before following Jin Gonggong.

Keung,keung,keung.

When the bear’s movement stopped, Leeha stopped as well. The bear raised one of its claws and pointed at the wall.

“Is it a trap?”


The bear nodded at Leeeha’s question. Because it was a giant that transformed, it was much larger than your normal bear, but the inside was so large that it wasn’t too difficult for Leeha and Jin Gonggong to walk through.

It looked like a perfectly organized hallway, and there was a light made of mana, and a fine variance was seen in a small part of the floor where the light did not reach properly.

“Indeed……. Is it this part?”

It would have been hard to notice because it was neatly organized. However, due to the accumulation of dust, the gap between the trap and the general path was noticeable.

‘I mean, it hasn’t been used in a long time.’

The bear jumped over the trap with a cautious attitude, and moved forward without touching the trap as much as possible. Jin Gonggong’s speed started to slow down little by little.

-I think there’s something ahead.

-What?

-I don’t know. Is it a monster? I smell something faint…… a person?

-I’ll take the lead. Jin Gonggong-nim, you get behind me.

-What? But if it’s like this.

– It’s because there might be an NPC that shouldn’t be hit.

If it’s Kaztor, they shouldn’t fight.

What if it’s a monster? Although it was a spacious area, there was not enough space to evade in battle. He couldn’t even kill it instantly in one blow.

Leeha and Jin Gonggong changed their positions and walked again. Not only was it their first time coming down the stairs, but the entire passageway was slanted.

In other words, even after the stairs going down to the basement, the two people who had been walking for a long time had already gone down considerably to the lowest level.

‘There shouldn’t be another person in here. If there is……. But it doesn’t feel like its been in use for a long time.’

Leeha grabbed the Black Bass tightly.

After descending underground, Kaztor’s crystal ball gradually brightened. The bear was so excited that Leeha could feel his snorting tickling his neck.

‘Mana Clairvoyance.’

Leeha used his skill. Not all of the internal structure was clear, but one thing was clear. Something with mana was lingering over.

“There’s something over there. We might have to run away, so you need to be ready.”

Jin Gonggong answered with a low growl.

It was impossible to know how far away they were from the unknown person through mana clairvoyance because they could be seen through the walls or internal structures. They just kept moving their feet towards the light.

And they finally found it.

Now, at the end of the straight hallway, they could clearly see something!

“Raise your hand slowly, any sudden movements and I will shoot!”

Leeha knelt down on one knee and quickly aimed at the shadow. The light was dim, but the figure was visible. The person wore a long-brimmed hat and shabby clothes.

“Who are you? We can attack right now!”

Jin Gonggong suddenly released the polymorph and shouted. However, the stranger did not stop moving even after hearing Leeha and Jin Gonggong.

No, rather, he even looked at Leeha and Jin Gonggong with blank eyes.

“Are you a user or NPC!? Tell me, who are you!”

“……Oh? Wow? So it wasn’t a hallucination?”

“Huh?”

“Yes?”

He raised his hat, revealing his firm olive-colored skin. He gave the impression of being a dog lover.

“How did you get here? There hasn’t been anyone in the last few days. Are you the owner of this dungeon? Can you open this door? Maybe there’s something after opening this door, even my master key can’t open it.”

The man was fiddling with something. With him leaping and making rattling sound. He looked like a thief.

“Are you.. a user?”

“Huh? Yes. Ah, you are not the owner of this dungeon? Then who- ah! Do you know Lee Jiwon? Did you come to kill me?”

The man raised the brim of his hat and said without hesitation.

What did he mean when he said come to kill him? However, with the name Lee Jiwon, and his attitude, Leeha was able to guess his identity.

“…No way. Are you Fernand-ssi?”

“Oh my. How did you know?”

Leeha and Jin Gonggong looked at Middle Earth’s Pioneering King.

 “So, how many days have you been wandering here?”

“That’s what pioneering is. I’ve seen this type of dungeon a few times. I was able to open it with my master key everywhere else, but it didn’t work here for some reason. There should be a good reward for something like this.”

“Oh, uhm……”

The man put his ear to the tightly closed door and was sticking all kinds of items through the cracks. Was he the Pioneering King? Shouldn’t he be called the thief king instead?

 ‘No, calling him a great thief is a bit …. He’s more like a little thief.’

Leeha looked at the contents of the quest and took out a letter from his bag.

“Excuse me, fernand-nim-”

“Ah, I see. Do I have to put something here? It must be a special item. But even without such a thing, I mean, I can do everything with the master key. But it’s a bit annoying.”

“-Actually, I came to meet Fernand-nim at the order of the Fibiel’s King-”

“Is it about the size of a marble? Ah- Huh? W-what is that?”

“-New world quest- Huh? What?”

“That! That shiny thing!”

Fernand, who didn’t even hear Leeha’s words, noticed the light peaking from Leeha’s bag.

“Ah, this is my quest…… ah?”

“That’s it!”

Only then did Leeha realize. The quest contents were tangled in his head while chatting with Fernand, who he had suddenly discovered.

Why did he come down here with Jin Gonggong?

‘Kaztor! The dark elf quest!’

Fernand pointed to the place where his master key was. Leeha put Kaztor’s crystal ball in its place.

Rumble—…….

After a slight vibration, the wall that had been firmly closed, opened.

(To be continued…)
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『Achievement: First Discovery – Kaztor’s Lab No. 6(A-)』

Congratulations! You have found an undiscovered place. The 6th Lab where the dark elf Kaztor used to live, smells of old dust.

You have to be careful of the guardians you might encounter. You have to survive this time too so that you can continue to light up the darkness that plagues Middle Earth.

Reward: 32 stat points (This achievement does not have a hall of fame.)

“Oh!”

“Oh!”

“Ah, here it is.”

Leeha and Jin Gonggong were surprised by the notification window in front of them, but Fernand just nodded.

An unexplored achievement. Was it because the three of them set foot here at the same time? All three were able to get the achievement.

‘Besides, what kind of reward is this generous? Are all frontier achievements like this?’

Since it was only given to the first group of discoverers, it meant that there was no need for the second or third discoverer. That was why the reward was huge without the hall of fame.

Leeha could understand Fernand’s attitude while looking at Leeha and Jin Gonggong.

‘He has dozens of these kinds of achievements…… No, maybe even hundreds…’

He was the person who revealed more than 50% of Middle Earth alone. How many achievements did he already have?

In terms of level alone, fernand was not able to enter the top 100, but he was able to fight against the strong monsters in the unexplored regions.

“I have seen something like this before. Ahh. That’s right. That’s right. The 3rd and 5th were a miss, but No. 5 didn’t even open with my key. Ah, what’s your job? Since you have the key to this dungeon, it seems that your main quest is pretty important in Middle Earth.”

Fernand went inside without hesitation. There was a saying to be careful of unknown places, but he, who was already an experienced adventurer, instinctively knew whether there was danger or not.

“I’m a musketeer.”


“Musket- ah, the Three Musketeers? Are you related to that? Right. In the past, I received a letter after finding the 2nd. War mercenary Lu……someone asked me if I got anything there. I didn’t get anything there, but I got some misunderstanding…… hmm, anyway, I think Kaztor is an important NPC…. Hey, what’s your name? Let’s see if we can get anything here.”

“Ah, yes.”

Leeha was able to get information from Fernands words.

As its name suggests, this was the 6th lab, and Kaztor’s 1st and 5th labs had already been explored. More importantly, many of them have already been opened by Fernand, and some of them have been visited by Luger.

‘What does it mean to have multiple research labs? Haven’t Luger and Kidd already finished the quest yet?’

Leeha and Jin Gonggong also entered the lab. The strange smell of medicine slightly irritated their nostrils.

A sample of an unknown organism was inside a dusty container, and the appearance of scattered laboratory articles and spider webs meant that it wasn’t empty for just one or two years.

“Leeha-nim. Here.”

“Okay.”

There were crumpled papers that prevented outsiders from reading them, but there were some documents that were kept. Leeha picked up the documents pointed out by Jin Gonggong.

『……With the power of dark elves, there is no further progress……』

『Human—-Requires a place…….』

『.. God’s Sword—–response–

——Suppress the Devil一-』

“Hmm….”

Did it mean that cooperating with humans was necessary? Besides, sword of God? Most of the words were destroyed, but Leeha could roughly guess what it was.

‘It is said that God and the Devil made something. Didn’t the Devil create a bullet, and God a sword?’ (ed: I don’t remember him making a sword tho…) The dark elf chief described it as a power.

However, whatever the legend was, it existed in some form. It seemed reasonable to speculate that the Devil had a bullet, and God had a divine silver sword.

‘Would it be used to subdue the devil? The God’s Sword overpowering the Devil?

“Cough, anyway, it would be impossible to complete the quest with this.”


As Leeha frowned, fernand, who examined every nook and cranny, sneaked up on him.

“There’s nothing noteworthy here, right? That was the case in the previous lab as well. Then there must be a 7th lab somewhere…… the 5th lab was B+ grade and the 6th lab is A-, so the 7th lab should be A. You need to find it fast, musketeer! The main scenario needs to move forward so that we could go to the eastern continent! All of the western continent hasn’t been revealed yet, but I’m tired of it already. All the unexplored regions are slowly getting revealed……”

“Really?”

“At first I am alone, but now I am not. Two months ago- no, it’s been over ten months in Middle Earth. How many users are exploring in the meantime? I’m going to die of annoyance.”

Fernand grumbled.

It was certainly in the early days that the name of the Pioneering King became popular. It has already been two months since Leeha started Middle Earth, so more than ten months have already passed in-game time.

There were still unexplored areas in some corners, but an adventurer like Fernand was likely to lose interest to some extent.

“Fernand-nim, what do you mean Eastern Continent? Western Continent?”

Jin Gonggong tilted his head.

“Oh? Haha, giant-nim doesn’t know. It’s just as the name suggests. This is the Western Continent-”

“A new continent across the Sea of Dawn. Is that what you call the Eastern Continent?”

“……How?”

Leeha supplemented Fernand’s words. The face of the Pioneering King, who had a light expression on his face at the entrance of the dungeon, hardened for the first time. Leeha sighed slightly.

‘He really didn’t listen to me at all.’

Then he pulled out a letter from his bag.

It was the item he obtained from Fibiel’s Royal Archives, 『Fernand’s Last Letter』.

“I am an envoy of Fibiel Royal Palace. The king wants to form a new continent expedition fleet with Fernand-nim at the head.”

Leeha handed Fernand’s Letter to Fernand. How did it feel to get back the item he left that day?

Fernand looked at Leeha with wide eyes. Leeha did not avoid his gaze.

“Let’s go together.”


“Aren’t you a user? NPC? What envoy?”

“Leeha-nim! You’re a special envoy?”

Not only Fernand but also Jin Gonggong was surprised and perplexed at Leeha.

“Ah, no, it’s just a term. I got a quest like that. I used the word envoy in order to look cool.”

He used the word envoy in order to look cool and he also thought that he might persuade Fernand if he used such an expression, but he reacted so seriously.

“Ohh…… My letter from the Royal Archives…… The king seems to be interested. He was so upset when I asked for help.”

“He must have realized the importance of Fernand-nim now. Would you like to go to the palace with me?”

“……I would like to but, it is not the right time yet.”

Fernand shook his head at Leeha’s suggestion. He wanted to go to the eastern continent as soon as possible before, but now he was shaking his head.

“What do you mean time?”

“Users aren’t ready yet. The last time I organized a fleet, the level of users was all low, so I went to the NPC fleet…… But that didn’t work either.”

“It looks like the monsters are strong. Strong is an understatement. Ships equipped with cannon-like things will be completely destroyed and will sink in one hit. It wasn’t even from magic. The NPCs call it a Sea Beast. It’s a monster of the sea that is bigger than most ships……”

Fernand, who did not even care when Leeha and Jin Gonggong entered the dungeon, trembled.

‘There’s already a musket…… so it’s only natural for there to be cannons that could be attached to ships. But it wasn’t enough. What kind of monster was it?’ However, after thinking more about it, there was a possibility.

For example, a giant monster, the Kraken that Leeha knew was an octopus that hits a ship from below and wraps its tentacles around it. It would be unreasonable to fight against it with only a few cannons on the side of a ship.

Because those kinds of cannons are not able to change directions.

‘It would have been even more impossible if there were more sea monsters other than the Kraken.’

As Leeha nodded after understanding the situation, fernand shrugged his shoulders.

“I should have gone then. Now, when we come back and try to gather a fleet, it would definitely be users. In what way could users break through something that even NPCs couldn’t? Do you think Alexander and Lee Jiwon would participate at the same time? The two of them can’t even be together-”

『The Guardian of Kaztor’s 6th lab appears.』

『Escape before the lab door closes.』

Ahh. It’s here as well. Let’s get going.”

The lights suddenly dimmed and the whole basement began to tremble. Fernand walked out towards the exit as if he was used to it, but Leeha and Jin Gonggong were flustered.

“If you don’t want to be buried and die, you have to run~ Haha.”

“Is that something that you can laugh about?”

“I did more with the Ancient Treasure Chest from the past! At that time, the stone was rolling from behind like in the movies, it was so fast.”

Fernand staggered and ran while talking. They have already noticed the trap earlier and when they escaped the trap with their agile movements, they finally escaped from the basement.

Gwraaaaa-!!!!

“Oh…… Is it a different type of guardian than last time?”

A huge monster roared making even Fernand bewildered.

“It’s kind of ominous, somehow it’s been ominous since I saw the Dragon Bone!!”

Jin Gonggong rolled his feet and looked around. Some of the bones surrounding the secret underground entrance were empty.

It’s bound to be empty.

Originally, the bones, which stood tall and formed the shape of a roof, were assembled and combined with each other to form a single small dragon.

Even Leeha had a rough understanding of the monster. It’s just that it’s not alive.

“Drake……

“To be more accurate. It’s a bone drake. Its estimated level is 220. I’m glad it’s not a real dragon. Oh, the weakness- maybe it’s the pattern on its chest.”

“Have you ever dealt with one?”

Fernand shook his head at Leeha’s question Fernand took out a small magnifying glass that Leeha had never seen before and was shining on the Drake.

“No. It’s my skill. Let’s run now. The three of us can’t catch the Bone Drake If I had attack skills, I would have dealt with it, but since that isn’t my job, it’s a little bit difficult. You know?”

Fernand put the magnifying glass in his pocket, pulled out a scroll, and continued.

“-It’s been fun so far, but I will hold back on going to the new continent until the users grow a little bit more-”

“Is the sea monster(海獸) stronger than that drake??”

Looking at the bone drake, Leeha held the Black Bass. He can’t send him away like this.

“Yes?”

“Is it stronger than that?”

“Hmm, that’s right. Besides, the difficulty is much higher because you have to deal with a bigger and stronger guy with a ship with limited space-”

Flap, flap, flap!

The bone drake flapped its bone wings and flew.

It was a flight that completely disregarded the law of physics, but it was a threat to Leeha, fernand, and Jin Gonggong’s life!

“Wahhh!”

Kwraaaaa-!

With just a simple flight movement, it threw the three people around.

‘It’s not a dragon, it’s a drake. It’s also undead. It can’t use magic.’

The distance was close. But its movement was fast and the speed of flight was also quite fast, so it was hard to aim. Nevertheless, Leeha did not put the Black Bass aside.

“If I catch that, will you go to the new continent with me?”

Phew…….

Haaaa…….

Still, he rather felt comfortable.

He was accustomed to aiming at fast-moving targets now because of the Midnight Circus. Besides, he was able to practice through Jin Gonggong’s golden eagle transformation.

At that time, they were moving and there was even vibration.

In other words, in other words, he was in a much better situation than before..

“Yes? Oh, wait- what’s your name? So, you’re going to catch that? No matter how I look at it-”

Kwraaaaa-!!!

The bone drake roared again and began to pick up speed. Normally, Leeha would have aimed for the head, but not this time. Most importantly, the fact that Fernand’s skill grasped the enemy’s weakness gave Leeha confidence.

If he knew the enemy’s ‘weakness’, there was nothing to fear.

Even if only a pattern with a 5cm diameter pattern on the bone drake’s chest.

“-you don’t stand a chance?! I feel comfortable just using the scrol-”

“Shh.”

Leeha quickly focused his left eye.

The flying speed of the drake was at a level that slightly exceeded Jin Gonggong’s flying speed. It was like looking at a plane flying toward him, but Leeha’s hands did not tremble. Calm Mind. There was no agitation. And then he shot it.

A gunshot louder than the bone drake’s roar resounded.

(To be continued…)
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『You have leveled up.』

Haaaa-

White light wrapped around Leeha’s body. The bone drake’s body, who was flying with its bony wings and defying the laws of physics, fell to the ground.

“……One shot? Was it an instakill?”

“Leeha-nim…… your amazing…”

Fernand and Jin Gonggong were stunned and perplexed. It’s not like they didn’t know what the level of the monster was. Wasn’t it said that its estimated level was 220?

‘Besides, it’s a guardian, its not a normal monster. Even if it’s not a field boss, it would be much stronger than a normal level 200 mob.’ Fernand could catch it, but he was too lazy to deal with it.

And due to the nature of his job with his few attack skills, fernand tried to avoid flying monsters because they were a pain to deal with. Fernand wasn’t surprised that Leeha caught it, but because it was an instakill. As far as he knew, the people who could deal with a level 220 guardian in one shot could be counted on one hand.

‘Alexander……. Lee Jiwon and Luger? No, could Luger even hit a target the size of a finger, on something that could fly so fast? Rather, he might end up getting hurt because he’s too powerful. His accuracy would be a bit too lacking……’

If it weren’t for Fernand’s skill, normal users would not be able to find the small pattern.

What did it mean to be able to accurately hit the target on a bone drake’s body and kill it in a single shot while it flew at high speeds and was far away.

Fernand, with his rabbit eyes, stared intently at Leeha.

“Whoah, this also gave an achievement? Nice.”

『Achievement: One shot, one kill – Bone Drake(A-)』

Congratulations! You defeated a Bone Drake in one blow! You will be the light of this chaotic Middle Earth. We ask that you continue to work hard for humanity in the future. But before that time comes, I hope you get a little stronger….

Reward : Strength +6, agility +10

You are the second registrand of the achievement 『One shot, one kill – Bone Drake』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.


Effect: Strength +12, agility +20

‘A-? Even though its estimated level is 220 it’s not A-grade? For level 230-240, you should at least get an A-grade’

The estimated level of the Cyclops, Quiquero was 180-190. It was B+-grade. But even when Leeha caught a level 220, it was A minus grade.

‘Besides, I’m the second registrant…. I was the third for Quiquero as well. It seems Bone Drake is more rare than Quiquero.’

Not knowing that what he did was comparable to Alexander or Lee Jiwon, Leeha focused on his new achievement.

“What’s your attack power- no, in this case, attack power is attack power, but its weakness-”

“That’s right. It was what Fernand-ssi told me. Fernand and I are a perfect match. It would be good if we could go to the new continent together. Right?”

“-Still……. Just because I told you does not mean you could hit it immediately.”

After getting the title and achievement of Pioneering King at the same time, a lot of people came to him. To obtain information on the best hunting ground or places where they could clear their quests.

‘They also had the confidence and strength. But those people only came for benefits…. But what about my profits?’

However, he knew at least one thing. The person in front of him right now was different from the people that came to ask him for help.

It’s that Fernand is able to ask for his help.

‘If there’s profit……’

His attack power is stronger than the cannons on a ship. His flexibility, accuracy and range could easily surpass any cannon.

Fernand’s body trembled slightly.

‘Isn’t it possible as long as three or four sea monster don’t come at the same time? No, what if there’s another person that could do an instakill?’

Fernand held out his had towards Leeha. His eyes were filled with emotion. (ed: ship)

“I am sorry for being rude. I am Fernand Magalias, but you can just call me Fernand.”

“Oh? It’s okay, I am Ha Leeha.”

Flustered at his sudden formality, Leeha hurriedly grabbed Fernand’s hand.


“I sincerely thank you for visiting me from Fibiel’s Royal Palace. Ha Leeha-nim. I will participate in the new continent expedition fleed of the Fibiel Kingdom.”

“Really? Really?!”

“Because the adventure is worth it if I’m with you.”

Fernand took off his hat and bowed politely. Not only Leeha, but Jin Gonggong, who was beside him, bowed their head at the same time.

He was a man that talked a lot and a little strange, but Fernand was a great adventurer.

He was a user who knew how to value the opportunity to explore new places.

****

“Then I will go! Please call me once you decide when to explore the new continent! I won’t do anything else and will only increase my affinity with plants and animals.”

“Haha, I got it, thank you, Jin Gonggong-nim”

Jin Gonggong was not a greedy user. He clearly knew that his level was still not yet good enough for the expedition, because there was still a lot of work to be done in the current continent.

At the place where Jin Gonggong left, fernand packed his belongings. Leeha cancelled his party with Jin Gonggong, and made a new party with Fernand.

“Shall we go?”

“Let’s go.”

“Uh…… By the way, I don’t have mass teleport scroll. Did you save Aelstock?”

“Yes.”

“Oops, wait a minute. I have to loot first.”

Leeha, who was about to rip a scroll, remembered the drops of the drake. He caught a rare monster, so he couldn’t just leave.

The item that dropped was 『a bone fragment with a pattern drawn on it』. Leeha picked up something that was the size of a fist.

‘Is that it? If you look at the achievement, it looked like it was at the same level as a field boss, but there were no items? It didn’t have anything else.’

Leeha caught a level 220 monster, but the only item he got was something that could be used as a material.


‘Where did I see this symbol-’

There were two overlapping triangles that made a six-pointed star. He felt like he had seen it before, he thought about it, but Leeha could not remember.

‘Israel’s flag looked a little like this…… Is that where I saw it? Not really…… Leeha felt a vague sense of deja vu, but nothing really came to mind. He would find out someday anyway, so he had to focus on Fernand for now.

“Alright done! Let’s go!”

“Let’s scroll.”

Leeha and Fernand tore a scroll at the same time. After 10 seconds of standing awkwardly while facing each other, the two of them were able to arrive at Aelstock.

『You have completed the quest New Land in the Sea of Dawn.』

『Fibiel Kingdom’s National Contribution increases by 50 points.』

‘Indeed. It’s done as soon as we arrived. The reward is absurd but-

In fact the condition and contents of the quest was just that. Of course, Leeha did not clear the quest because of the 50 achiement points.

“It has been quite a while since the last time I came to Fibiel’s capital city.”

Fernand smiled at the loud shouts and the users who filled the road.

“Ah, aren’t you a Fibiel Citizen?”

“No. I have a high level of friendship with many countries, but if we look at my nationality, I belong to Ezwen.”

“The holy nation? Wow…… The country the size of a rat poop- no, sorry. Why in that little country? I heard that not even priests choose that country.”

Ezwen, a country that was hardly ever mentioned.

Normal users chose their nationality in consideration of the strength of the country.

Choosing which country to go to was also done in order to get benefits for one’s growth.

However, the holy nation of Ezwen that Fernand spoke of was really weak!

The size of the country was small, and its military was not strong, and there were no hunting grounds that only that country could use.

However, it was unique because they have a pope, and a religious order that dealt with white magic.

‘It is said that it was a country of unity. Isn’t it said that the ruler of Ezwen is the head of the religion that is spread across the continent?’

However, temples and churches were everywhere, and there were no shortage of jobs and quests.

In other words, it was a country that was highly regarded as an abandoned place that no players would dare choose except for a few people who fell in love with the ‘concept play’ among users.

‘Anyway, there are a lot of strange people among the outsiders.’

That’s why they became outsiders instead of rankers. Leeha observed Fernand for a moment while looking at the streets and smiling at the people of Aelstock.

“It’s fun.”

“Huh?”

“The general countries give free experience for discovering unexplored areas, but Ezwen gives higher rewards for undiscovered dungeons. I found a place where the Devil previously hid.”

“Ah.”

“Well, its similar, so it’s not about the compensation. Its just! I like small countries for some reason. I don’t have to be hostile to any of the more prominent countries.”

“Well…… that’s also an advantage. If you’re done looking, let’s go to the royal palace.”

The completion of the quest itself ended the moment they arrived at Aelstock, but that was not in the description of the quest.

Both of them must enter the royal palace and finish the report. Leeha had a rough estimate on what would happen.

‘A continent expedition fleet will be created, and a new quest will appear where I am also a participant.’

It was an obvious story.

Leeha led Fernand to the royal palace.

“You’re working hard.”

“Welcome, Leeha-nim, fernand-nim.”

As soon as they touched the crystal ball, the guards met the two men. It was a natural action for Leeha, who had a high intimacy. However, it was not easy for Fernand.

What was the reason for his letter to remain in the archives of the royal palace? He had to see if his achievement and fame in Fibiel was high enough.

 Heading through the inner gate to the central palace, fernand asked.

“Did the Royal Castle become active? It wasn’t like this when I came here before.”

The vigilance and security became more stricter than when Leeha stopped Petyr’s attack.

‘Isn’t because of the war preparations?’

The two of them even completed their application for an audience with the king.

There were also more NPCs who were not guards. Besides, it was obvious what those NPCs who were wearing armor and swords were doing.

“No! You can’t go that way!”

“The Sacred Knights just need to defend the capital! What do you know about the operation?”

On the way to meet the king along with the guards, a voice leaked out from the meeting room. The middle-aged man with a rough beard and impressive voice did not lose a single word.

‘She’s only great. Because there’s no other female lead.’

(ed: whatever that means)

Leeha, who was walking down the hallway, looked at Shin Nara through a crack in the door and smiled.

“Oh, this is so frustrating! Haven’t you crossed over to the Minis Kingdom? It’s a perfect canyon. Even if I don’t know things like strategy, the only thing I can say is that you shouldn’t cross that narrow path-!” And at the familiar gaze she felt, Shin Nara suddenly turned her head.

Her expression, which had been frowning, brightened in an instant.

“Ah! The envoy is here now! Wait. I’ll be out for a while.”

“D-Dame! Where are you going in the middle of-”

Even the NPC general was not able to stop Shin Nara. She quickly came out of the conference room, closed the door, and greeted Leeha.

“Leeha-ssi! What’s going on! When you arrive at the capital, you have to tell me first!”

“Haha, there are times when I come a few times a day, how could I always bother you so often throughout the day? I don’t want to make Nara-ssi uncomfortable.”

“Uncomfortable! Why are you saying that? B-between…. Us.” (ed: ugh, girl its a guy from a game chill out)

The female voice that was raised a while ago disappeared.

“Between us?”

Seeing her blushing as she slightly twisted her body, Leeha’s heart pounded for some reason. (ed: am I the only one who’s not into the romance?)

“A-anyway. Where are you going today?”

“Ah. I have something to report to the king. It’s about a quest I received before.”

“That’s right. Who is that person behind you?”

Shin Nara gently shook her head and looked at the user behind Leeha.

With his shabby attire, and worn-out hat. He was dressed like he shouldn’t be able to enter the royal palace, which made people even more curious.

Leeha introduced the unknown person to Shin Nara, thinking that it would help increase his reputation.

“It seems this would be the first time Nara-ssi is meeting him. This is Fernand, the Pioneering King.”

And then he thought. As expected, a cute woman’s surprised face is even cuter.

“P-Pioneering- Fernand!”

(To be continued…)
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“Hmm, Nara-ssi? I think calling Fernand a dog is a bit.” (Ed: Pioneer king and dog both start with 개 In korean and because Nara was stuttering last chapter it sounded like she was saying the word dog.)

“Ah, t-that- sorry, are you really the Pioneering King, fernand?”

With Leeha teasing her, Shin Nara felt even more flustered. Seeing her speak hastily, Leeha burst out laughing.

“My name is Fernand Magalias. Are you Madame Shin Nara-nim?”

“Phew, Yes, I am. How many female knights are there, other than me? Well, just call me Shin Nara. And calling me madame makes me sound old.”

Shin Nara smiled and waved her hand. Fernand smiled softly and nodded.

“Leeha-nim, fernand-nim, this way-”

“Ah, yes. Then, Nara-ssi, see you next time!”

“Yes. Good luck! You know that when you get an audience, you need to kneel on one knee in front of his majesty, right? Because if you do something wrong, your intimacy could be lost-”

“Don’t worry, I already know that.”

Shin Nara looked at Leeha with a worried expression and Leeha smiled and waved her off.

When he needs to be reliable, he’s one of the most reliable people in Middle Earth, but when he doesn’t, he’s like a baby on the beach.

‘That’s Leeha-ssi’s charm but……. Ah, look where my mind has gone..’

-After you and Fernand leave the castle, please send me a whisper. I have something to tell you.

-What do you mean? Oh, okay, I will!

Leeha answered Shin Nara’s whisper and looked at her again. Shin Nara made eye contact with Leeha, nodded her head, and entered the conference room.

Seeing Shin Nara and Leeha, fernand became extremely curious.

‘Interesting……. That’s definitely interesting.’


He said that it was thanks to Lee Jiwon that he found his location. And he is also close with Shin Nara? Judging by his weapon and job, he must also know Luger.

‘Why hasn’t his name spread yet?’

The fight with the Rising Sun was only a small incident for an outsider like Fernand. The guild battle between Byulcho and Hwahong was big, but it was only within Fibiel. It was only natural that Fernand, who was an expert from another country, to not be aware of Leeha.

“Your Majesty, Pioneering Expert Fernand Magalias and Musketeer Ha Leeha are asking for an audience.”

Come in.

In front of the king, fernand’s ‘king’ title could not be used, and under the guidance of the guard and servants, Leeha and Fernand finally arrived at the palace

Even after completing the quest to protect the king, the was the first time for Leeha to see the king up close. As Kijung once said, the noble dignity of the king was flowing.

‘It is also strange that such a king never questioned Lotzac’s words.’

Leeha and Fernand bowed to the king. Except for the commander of the guard, no other NPCs were seen.

“Fernand Magalias.”

“Yes, Your Majesty.”

“Thank you for granting this one’s request.”

“You’re welcome, Your Majesty. Rather, I too wish for this.”

Fernand’s voice was somewhat firm. Fernand instinctively realized that pioneering a new continent had to wait for a long time before it could be completed with the power of the users.

So Fernand’s plan was to quickly break through with the power of the NPCs. It was the king who stopped it. Of course, it was unavoidable.

“However, it has become impossible to assemble a fleet right now.” (ed: why the heck did the king bring him here)

“Yes?”

“Huh?”

Fernand and Leeha tilted their heads. When the king coughed, the captain of the royal guards straightened his back and raised his voice.

“Right now, the country is preparing for war. We need to do everything we can to erase the sly Minis from this continent. More than anything else, minis has joined forces with another country and is targeting our country from the sea.”


“……Are you talking about Kraven?”

“Yes. Pioneering a new continent is an achievement that would be enough to show the prowess of this country, however, when we are on the brink of war, we have to be careful about the placements of our troops.”

It was what the captain of the royal guards said, but the content was simple. They were in a situation where Fibiel was surrounded by Minis by land, and Kraven by sea. Fibiel’s power is not enough to wage war against both countries at the same time.

In other words, they don’t want to use any of their power at sea. They will only have enough force to keep Kraven in check while the remaining resources will be put on land. And it meant that they could not advance to the new continent after defeating Kraven’s navy with that small amount of force.

“As the captain of the royal guard said……. The country can not pay attention to the new continent. However, after this one punishes Minis and Kraven, I promise to give you the world’s best fleet. Fernand Magalias.”

The situation was not different for Kraven. The maritime blockade towards Fibiel weakened their chances of exploring the new continent. At that time, what if the tip of the sword that was heading to Minis turned to the sea in one stroke? It would put Kraven in danger.

In other words, as long as they could not be sure where and how each other would move, it would mean that no country would be able to move arbitrarily.

‘Does that mean that it would be postponed until the end of the national war? Well, I cleared the dark elf quest as well, so I’m not missing out on anything…… But it’s still a pity.’

Fernand understood what the king and the royal guard captain were saying as well.

“Okay. He always keeps his promises.”

“It’s the same for Ha Leeha who had brought Fernand Magalias. I will make sure that you will be able to participate in the expedition to the new continent, so don’t feel too sad.”

“Certainly, Your Majesty.”

As the king nodded, the royal guard captain stomped his feet. Keung-! As the sound rang out, the guards pushed the door open. As they were done talking, it was now time for them to leave.

Leeha and Fernand bowed and left the room.

“Hmm, anyway, it should be considered as a good thing, right? Because we have received a promise to be a part of the pioneering fleet.”

“That’s right. I don’t know how many ships will be left after the war……. But it can’t be helped.”

“Well, Fibiel’s primary enemy is Minis. Will you try to save as many boats as possible? As long as Kraven doesn’t do anything funny-”

“But the Kraven Kingdom is so unpredictable that I don’t know what will happen. In the past, I was commissioned to go out on an unexplored island, but then the people seemed to have changed personalities as soon as they got on the ship. Anyway, I will see Ha Leeha-nim again then.”

“When the war is over- that is.”

Leeha and Fernand talked as they left the central palace.


“Will you accept my whisper next time? The thought of trying to look for you throughout the whole continent is truly terrifying.”

“Haha, no way. It’s not formed yet, but we’re on the same team now.”

The add friend window appeared in front of Leeha. Leeha was not the only one that wanted to be friends with Fernand. Fernand also wanted to be friends with Leeha. It was already proven that his help was essential if they wanted to cross the sea.

“Good. Then, see you next time.”

“I will unblock Ha Leeha-ssi from whispering, so please contact me if there’s anything. Ah! Ah, was it Kaztor’s Lab, I will tell you if I find something like the 7th or 8th!”

“That would be nice then, thank you. Goodbye!”

As soon as he left the royal palace, he tore a scroll and disappeared. Will he leave without stopping by the town? His position was gonna become unknown again.

‘Did he just go somewhere unexplored……? It was wonderful anyway.’

After going their separate ways, Leeha sent a whisper to Shin Nara. After a while, her answer came, and the two of them met again at the conference room that had been used as the command and control room when they were protecting the king.

***********

They were alone. (ed: oh my, how scandalous)

“Phew, are you done now?”

Shin Nara untied her hair. The tied-up ponytail had a sporty and neat beauty to it, but her long, flowing black hair suited her well. After a moment of silence, Leeha answered her.

“Yes, well. It has been delayed.”

“As expected……. I don’t know what had happened but I had a feeling it would. The whole royal castle is in turmoil right now because of the war.”

“How is the war going? Looking at it, it seems like we will be dealing with both Minis and Kraven simultaneously.”

At Leeha’s question, Shin Nara’s face somewhat darkened

“It will start in a month at the latest.”

“If its a month……. It’ll be a week in the real world.”

It was less than a week. The grace period given to the users was only that much. When the war begins, users will not be able to trade and move as they do now.

“Yes. Some users are already considering leaving. Some are arguing which side will be more beneficial, others are going to Ezwen to be completely neutral… After the attempted assassination of the king, many NPCs, including the commanders of each military, came and went.”

Leeha had personally experienced this, but what about the other users? If they are friendly with the NPCs or if they are at the level where they can use the Holy Grill’s capital branch, they would have already obtained the information.

‘However, there will be very few. The majority of users who are close to the citizens……wouldn’t even know. As it was closer to a rumor, they will be dismissive and careless, and then they will fall into the whirlwind of war.’

“Will the users also join the war?”

“If they belong to that country, I think they might receive a quest. I don’t know what will happen to the military, but in any case, there are speculations that it will be divided into contributions on the battlefield……

“Hmm……. As expected. That’s the way other games are. Phase 2 is great.”

Another way is to ignore the war and wander around hunting grounds from a different territory. However, there will not be many users who will ignore the falling rice cakes in a large event called war. In other words, through this national war, a lot of users will be fighting against each other. Is this what phase 2 was aiming for all along?

‘Then, what does attack is the best defense mean? Does it mean to unconditionally attack in a national war? The successor to the hero and what they did……. It doesn’t seem to have anything to do with each other.’

If phase 1 was for the growth of the users, would phase 2 be a full-fledged confrontation? Leeha wasn’t sure.

“Anyway, one month is not a lot of time.”

“Yes. Please prepare as well Leeha-ssi. Don’t forget to log in before the war starts.”

“Hmm. Sure. Thank you, Nara-ssi. Ah! Did you call me to tell me about this?”

“T-t-that, yes. T-t-that’s right. That’s right!”

“What?”

Shin Nara’s lips trembled. She didn’t know how to speak.

“L-last time, the meal…. I asked you about.”

“Ah, yes.”

It was the last conversation between Leeha and Shin Nara. In order to hide his disability, Leeha refused, and Shin Nara walked away. She suddenly brought it up again. Shin Nara was certainly more of a female lead than Leeha thought. (ed: do you mean she’s assertive?)

“If… it’s too much of a burden with… just the two of us… do you want to go with your cousin? If I come with Bobae……”

“Y-you will go with Bobae-ssi? Kijung- no, master Kay? Two on two?”

It would be nice if Kijung was by his side! Unconditionally! That would be his answer, right?

However, Leeha could not answer easily. Saying no would be too disrespectful to Shin Nara.

‘It’s impolite to decline a woman’s offer twice.

But I don’t feel well going out. Leeha nodded first.

“Yes, I will ask Kay.”

“Really? Really?”

“But when-”

“It would be good after the war is over! Even before the war – no, not before. After the war! Please! Please! ” Shin Nara moved closer to Leeha with her eyes twinkling. Their height difference was about half a head. It was a size that was too big to hug. Leeha backed away and barely nodded his head. (ed: is she the taller one? Also you are never too big to hug)

“Yes, yes I know. A-anyway, see you next time, Nara-ssi!”

“Yes! I’ll tell Bobae! You must ask Master Kay! Please!”

How many times did she need to say ‘please’? Leeha quickly left the palace.

‘After the war……’

It takes a month in Middle Earth just to prepare for war. How long will it take to end? It will take quite a bit of time. Then there was only one goal.

‘I need to collect them until then.’

Leeha had a determined expression. He left the palace and went toward Brown Bess academy. It was time to clear the quest with the information he obtained from the dark elf.

‘Character Window.’

Of course, before that he checked his stats first.

Name: Ha Leeha/ Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 160 (0%) Title: Fearless / Achievements: 55

HP: 4,400(3,080) / MP: 1,150

Strength: 248(+166)

Agility: 1,637(+518)

Intelligence: 129(+78)

Constitution: 145(+52)

Mind: 40(+30)

Remaining Stat Points: 42

‘I’m finally Level 160. My leveling is definitely slowing down.’

(To be continued…)
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He could clearly feel his level getting stagnant. His level got to level 159 after killing Petyr, and after that, he killed Snee from the Midnight Circus and caught a lot of monsters in Adamantine Mountain.

‘No, actually, there weren’t many. Well, I should be satisfied for now. How many people can raise their level by one and get 42 stat points from it?’

The first discovery achievement, bonus stats every 10 levels, and 5 basic stats per level, a total of 42 stat points.

‘That’s not all. After Jin Gonggong raised his affinity, didn’t he help me raise 32 stat points?’

Jin Gonggong also received the first discovery achievement.

All three of them achieved it so Jin Gonggong did not need to express gratitude to Leeha that much. However, he really wanted to thank Leeha.

Right now, he had gotten a total of 500 agility from achievements, and and 100 of that was because of the help from Jin Gonggong.

‘Aerial shooting…… I mean, that was a lot of work. Haha.’

There was nothing to worry about. Leeha invested 2 points in strength and the rest was invested to agility. He now had 50 strength and 1,677 agility.

Not long ago, he only had 1,400 agility, but now, it was on the verge of getting to 1,700.

“Okay, let’s go.”

After finishing the stats check, Leeha entered the academy. No new musketeers were to be seen.

“Director-nim?”

“Oh, you’re here.”

In the director’s room, Browless was sitting alone. Leeha greeted him.

“I have investigated the Arcane Sniper.”

“Already?”

“Yes. I also met the dark elves in person.”


“That’s really fast……. Much faster than Luger and Kidd.”

“Oh? Is that so?”

It was the first time he had seen Browless surprised.

He had no choice but to be surprised. Dark elves basically do not care for other races.

Far from entering the village, it took more than a few months get familiar for them to not get attacked.

After getting close enough to meet them face to face, one had to show that you have no intention of attacking. Of course, dark elves will attack you, so you have to survive and run away from their attacks.

And then find them agan, get close enough to face them, and again, surviving their one-sided attack, surviving and running away…….

Leeha finished the quest with the help of the necklace. which could remove the tedious and annoying task and directly meet with them, so it was only natural that there was a difference in speed compared to them.

Leeha joked while looking at Browless’ expression.

“But hasn’t Luger and Kidd investigated everything already?”

“Huh? What?”

“About the story of Arcane Sniper.”

“Well. I don’t know what you are talking about.”

Browless shrugged his shoulder with a look of incredulity.

He just said that Leeha was faster than them in meeting the dark elves, so how come he is pretending that he doens’t know? After Leeha discovered the unavoidable blindspot of the ‘game’, he laughed.

After all, they must proceed with their own quest for now.

“Then I will tell you what I have heard from the dark elves’ chief.”

Leeha sat on the chair in front of Browless and started talking.

『You have completed the quest – The traces of two people – 2.』

“The first Arcane Sniper was a human…?”


“Yes. The dark elves, who the Arcane Sniper saved from persecution, said that he was clearly human. And the chief also verified the information that the Arcane Sniper was human.”

Leeha confirmed by opening the Dark elves’ quest window.

It was clearly written in the chief’s words. 

‘-If you are a descendant of the Arcane Sniper, if you want to become his descendnt-’ He said.

‘In other words, it meant that the dark elves did not think that Arcane Sniper came from the dark elves.’

It was natural to think that Arcane Sniper came from humans. (ed: If you say so)

“Then even during the second human-demon-”

“Of course, it wasn’t a dark elf. They were upset. Saying that everything was a misunderstanding from the beginning…… even after delivering the chief’s words, Browless’ thoughts did not change immediately. In any case, the dark elves were a dangerous race, right? His expression became quite complicated.

“Human……. If this means that only humans can become Arcane Sniper, then maybe…”

Leeha quietly looked at him.

He could guess what Browless was thinking about right now. From the moment he heard that Arcane Sniper was human, no, from the moment two of the Three Musketeers, mr. Brown, and Ms. Elizabeth, were going to the demon king’s army.

“No, that can’t be right! Did you mention that there was a testimony from the wood elves?”

“What?”

“It’s in the records. Didn’t you say that it was written that it was a wood elf who confirmed that the Arcane Sniper intervened, that Arcane Sniper was defitnitely a ‘dark elf’.”

“Ah, yes. Yes. How it was possible to hit from 5 to 6 nautical miles. It was written that a wood elf, who was at the boat at the time, testified.”

Leeha confirmed the statement that was in the Royal Archives. And judging by Browless’ reaction, the next quest would be.

『The traces of two people -3』

Description: ‘If Arcane Sniper was a human, and Arcane Sniper appeared around the end of the second Human-Demon war……. No, surely. No. I still have to know. I definitely have to. Can you look at it? The Arcane Sniper is a dark elf. If not…… if it was a human, then who was it.’

The existence of the Arcane Sniper that appeared at the same time that his companions disappeared. Browless has an ominous premonition. Content: Obtain information about 『Arcane Sniper』 from the wood elf who confirmed it.

Reward: ??


– Would you like to accept?

‘You’re already saying that it’s not a dark elf.’

Still, it is only human to need confirmation. although, Browless was an NPC.

Leeha understood his feelings. And pressed the accept button.

What does it mean when the reward has question marks. It meant that this quest line was almost ending.

“Will you look into it?”

“Of course. I’m also curious about the Three Musketeers of the previous generation.”

Browless’ eyes widened at Leeha’s comment. However, he didn’t show it in the end.

“P…… Please.”

It was about the assumption that his companions had joined the Demon King’s army and became Arcane Sniper and aimed their guns towards humanity.

“Goodbye.”

Leeha walked out of the academy. It’s been a dreadful connection since he heard about it from the Dark Elf Chief’s, this somewhat cleared things up.

“Hmm, no I have to go and check it out now. The wood elves.”

Unlike dark elves, wood elves were a race that had their own territory. It was also located at Fibiel Kingdom, so there was no need to suffer like the dark elves did.

‘It’s said that I would arrive with only just one ride at the warp gate…” (ed: You better not screw this up with that stupid necklace.)

On the way to the warp gate, Leeha suddenly had a question.

How far did Luger and Kidd progress on this quest? Leeha opened the friends window dedicated to the Three Musketeers and checked if they were connected. Seeing that the two of them were connected, Leeha whispered to Kidd.

-What are you doing?

-……What do you think I’m doing? You can see my location clearly.

-Well, were you about to sleep?

-Of course. Just keep it simple.

Kidd’s voice was hoarse. The location was an inn in a village in the Fibiel Kingdom.

‘Is his goal to sleep at every inn in Middle Earth? The place changes everyday.’

Leeha suppressed his curiosity and asked a question.

-Did you complete the data collection quest for Arcane Sniper? Was it Kaztor’s Lab or something.

-……Huh?!

-Why are you so surprised?

-A-are you on that part of the quest already?

-Already? I went looking for a lab, but there was nothing there. If you know something, please share. No matter which of us finishe’s it sooner, why don’t we share our information so that we can finish it sooner?

-Did you even find a lab? Was it the 6th?

Hearing Kidd’s surprised voice, Leeha was convinced. The fact that Fernand had just guessed.

-As expected, the 1st to 5th were already opened. That’s right, I found the 6th.

– Haaa. Luger had already set his eyes on it and is currently looking for it- no, as much as possible, don’t tell him that you found it. He will try to kill you.

-I-I didn’t even want to talk to Luger, so it should be fine. He doesn’t even know that I found it.

-No, he would find out if you found it. Because we have the technology to find out who the first discoverer was. It’ll be fine if he just gets over it…….

Leeha frowned as he listened to Kidd’s voice. He was already shivering at the thought of that weird looking cannon getting aimed at him again.

-Anyway, you guys still haven’t recovered Kaztor’s data yet. I quess I have caught up.

Kidd did not reply. After a while, Leeha smiled as he saw his location from an inn to a wasteland.

Is that lazy guy’s fighting spirit burning? Kidd couldn’t stand the fact that Leeha had caught up with him.

-I will find the 7th lab first. I will inevitably become Arcane Sniper. (ed: Unfortunately this stories mc is not you, sorry bud.)

-Hmm, okay. Then, see you next time.

It was not like he contacted Kidd for no reason. Based on his reaction, Leeha was able to figure out several things.

‘He is going to be Arcane Sniper? The 6th lab did not have a clue as who could be or how one could become the Arcane Sniper.’

What did Kidd know? It meant that the contents of the previous laboratories were all different.

‘And the rival that he once told me about…… Wouldn’t Luger’s reaction be like that?

Based on the words and actions of Luger and Kidd, Leeha was convinced.

『Arcane Sniper is ‘something’ that can be used or become to by the trio, and only one of them could have that qualification.』

Even Luger was able to estimate that it could be ‘taken’ from each other. Kidd didn’t thought differently, but he thought that only one of the three could get it. So, it was clear why he used the word ‘rival’.

Moreover, Luger and Kidd did not discover the 6th lab, and there was a high probability that it would not be discovered in the future. Because it was hidden in the frontier that Fernand was wandering around.

“Good. I did not just catch up. At this time, I’m actually one step ahead.”

Was it possible to narrow down the scope of the location of the 7th lab to some extent? The keyword was clearly left in the 6th Lab.

『Human.』

‘There was a possibility that it would not be in a remote place like an unexplored island this time.’

Surprisingly, there was a possibility that it would be in a city, town, or castle. And it was the wood elves who were able to catch the movements of the dark elves the fastest.

“Where are you going?”

“Elm”

That was Leeha’s next destination.

“Elm, an autonomous city within the Fibiel Kingdom. 1 person. That will cost you 1 gold and 30 silver.”

“Ah…… Why is the warp gate always so expensive? No matter where the elven village is, why is-”

“If you don’t want to use it, get out. Next-”

“No, no, who said I didn’t?”

Even though he was determined, he could not stand that he had to suddenly spend 1 gold and 30 silver. Leeha cried as he took out his precious money and handed it over.

“I hope you have a pleasant trip.”

The next moment, Leeha arrived in Elm, the city of the elves.

(To be continued…)
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“Well, for now……”

Leeha quickly took off his necklace. It was a fraudulent item that increased intimacy with the dark elves by 100%, but it had the penalty of decreasing the intimacy with the wood elves by 50%. In the dominion of the wood elves, he would not be able to say anything even if he got stabbed with a knife while recklessly wearing the necklace.

“Buying Tinto fruits, stems, and leaves! We will buy all of them at market price, so please come!”

“Looking for a 4-man party to catch the polluted zelkova tree, only those who can use a longbow and can shoot alternately’!

”

“Who wants to teach me a skill for the water spirit! Something that has a haste effect! I will pay you 10 gold.”

Judging from their appearance which was tall, with pointed ears, and a slender body. And in terms of skills, magic, spirits, and bows.

Leeha was able to see all the types of wood elves at a single glance.

‘Of course, there were some warrior classes, but most of them were ranged damage dealers.’

There was no one who used a crossbow.

All of them had jobs using basic bows such as the composite bows and longbows, so he thought that this might be the most ‘game-like’ village.

Compared to the large buildings of the Shazrashian Federation, and the small buildings of Hell Anvil, the buildings of Elm had a modest feeling. Compared to the humans that gave off a sense of splendor, the calm pastel tones were rather unnatural because only the colors green and yellow were used.

Leeha headed to the pub, walking among the wood elves who mingled with the humans.

It was expected that, in any town, one must enter the pub first in order to collect basic information. However, Leeha, who had just left the warp gate and started walking, felt suspicious movements following him .

‘Two, no three.’

There were slow footsteps that followed him while keeping a distance.

One on the left, right, and rear. They were surrounding Leeha.

However, unlike the frontier, this was not a lawless area. It wasn’t like Leeha was going out of the town anytime soon. Leeha guessed that what they could do would be limited.


“Excuse me. Can we inspect you for a moment?”

“What?”

However, Leeha’s guess was completely wrong. As soon as the crowd lessened, they quickly approached and blocked Leeha’s escape route. They were fully armed wood elves.

“We are the guards of Elm. Please cooperate with us.”

“W-what’s going on?”

“We could feel the dark elves’ energy coming from you. We don’t want to see a cursed aura circulating in this sacred city.”

“Dark…… elf? What are you talking about?”

Why? As he spoke, Leeha looked at his own neck. Didn’t he take off that necklace already? However, the Elm guards did not come to inspect Leeha because of the necklace. A sword that looked like it was made from long leaves, an impressive fluttering blade pointed at Leeha’s bag. (ed: I don’t know how impressive a floppy leaf sword could be.)

“Can I check your bag for a moment?”

It was then that Leeha realized . It was not the necklace that was emanating the dark elves’ ‘energy’…….

‘Damn it, Kaztor’s Orb…”

He didn’t know he would get caught by something like this. As Leeha hesitated, the Elm guards become more agitated with him.

“Open it now.”

“In the autonomous city of Elm, if you reject the request of the Elm guards, we can take you away -”

“I will open it. Okay. You can open it. Why are you scaring me like that?”

He couldn’t fight here. And running away wasn’t an option either. And what about the wood elves? It was already a part of their description. They were a tree-loving race.

『The bargaining skill has been activated.』

『The chances of persuading the target have increased by 41%.』

With his skill expert bargaining level 6, Leeha nonchalantly opened his bag and took out an item.

“Look. Do you know what this is?”


“Hmm……? What is it?”

“No, wait…… this……”

It wasn’t Kaztor’s Crystal Ball. The size was about the same, but they were looking at a completely different item.

It wasn’t the dark elves’ crystal that glowed when near Kaztor’s lab, but it was the small dark turquoise fruit.

“Isn’t this…… 『The Seed of the Polluted World Tree』?”

It was the first time the Elm guards saw it, but they were not ignorant. Leeha also continued with even more confidence now because he was aware of the basic settings of the world tree.

“Yes. The world tree! The home of the wood elves! However, it was a place that was defiled and corrupted and cannot be reached! It is one of the seeds of the world tree.”

“Where did you get such a thing? Did you buy it?”

The Elm guards looked at Leeha with half-doubt, and half-surpise. He didn’t expect to get their trust buy showing it, but their expressions had softened.

Leeha answered, thinking that the feud between dark elves and wood elves was much worse than he expected.

“Where did I get it? Of course the world tree’s seed that was germinated from the polluted world tree was obtained by hunting. And now, I am studying this seed to find a way to restore the world tree into its original state- huh…….”

It was because the Elm guards didn’t believe him……

“You got it through hunting?”

“The plants germinated from the seeds of the world tree spread across the continent will never be weak, so when you say you hunted it…… I’m sorry, but with your skills, it’s almost impossible-”

“Its impossible? Impossible you say?”

Leeha took out the Black Bass and pulled the bolt. As soon as he aimed, the Elm guards flinched and retreated.

Before they could react, Leeha pointed to the top of a spire in the distance. (ed: I thought he said this place was a modest town? Also is it really okay to desttroy stuff in town Leeha)

“Do you see that?”

At a distance of 470m, something small enough that it would be hard to see with the naked eye of normal users was shining on top of the spire.

The heads of the Elm guards turned at the same time. Of course, there was no way that the NPCs acting as knights would not be able to find it.


“The spire’s wind gauge? Yes, of course-”

The wind speed was 3m/s, the wind direction was southwest, the ballistic effect was insignificant.

His judgement was quick and his shooting was even quicker.

Baaang—!

“What do you see? I can’t see it.”

When the sound rang, the Elm guards drew their swords, but that was it. Leeha picked up the dropped cartridge case and put the Black Bass back into its case.

“What, how……?”

The eyes of the Elm guards turned to the top of the spire. The weather gauge and the small flagpole, which had been flapping slowly until just now, had already been destroyed and disappeared. Seeing their bewildered expression, Leeha immediately continued talking.

“I am someone who wants to correct the pollution of the world tree for the prosperity of the wood elves, and in the process I had a brief squabble with the dark elves. It is very disappointing to hear that you doubt my abilities even after seeing the polluted world tree seed. What, do I have to show it to you again? How can I test my skills for you guys again?”

While the Elm guards were still at loss for words, Leeha quickly spat out the rest of his words like a door to door salesmen.

The skill he just showed gave weight to his scolding of the wood elf NPCs.

“No. We apologize for inconviniencing you.”

“We are very sorry.”

The Elm guards gave the Seed of the Polluted World Tree back to Leeha and bowed their heads deeply. A chuckle escaped from Leeha’s mouth but they didn’t notice.

“Wait, that’s it? No, if you’re really sorry, can I ask you for a favor?”

If he had the Elm guards, why would he need to go to the pub? The wood elves listened to Leeha.

********

“It is here.”

“Thank you.”

“We are very grateful. We look forward to your efforts toward the World Tree in the future.”

The Elm guards politely bowed toward Leeha and went back. He now had this kind of relationship with the NPCs, compared to when they were about to arrest him a few minutes ago.

‘As expected, I am pretty good at bargaining. And the spire as well…’

Maybe because his strength had increased, now he was able to demonstrate a pretty stable skill even in the ‘standing and shoot’ posture.

He thought that it would take quite a while due to the length and weight of the gun, but…….

‘My arms still shake after three or four shots, but I guess it’s good enough. In the real world, it would have still been impossible.’

Even if one had enough strength, it was difficult to stand and aim with a gun weighing 12kg.

There was a reason for Luger’s non-standard posture with 『Cobalt Blue Python』s ‘bombardment’. That gun weighed a lot more than Leeha’s Black Bass.

Knock, knock, knock.

Anyway, after many twists and turns, Leeha was guided to an old house in the suburbs of Elm. After knocking on the door, a young wood elf appeared.

“Who are you?”

“Hello. I came to see the elder who participated in the second Human-Demon war. Is that senior living here with you?”

“I live alone……”

“Huh?”

At most, he looked like was in his early 30s. He looks only two years older than the Elm guards?

Of course he was a wood elf. And an NPC as well. It meant living in a different dimension from the human’s concept of time.

“Ah, that, uh, are you that old?”

“I’m an old man, I am already over 350 years old, so that’s kind of true. In any case, come in.”

“350 years old……. You sure look young.”

“You’re exaggerating. Come on in.”

Praising one’s looks seemed to work regardless of their race. The wood elf smiled and guided Leeha.

“Right, what did you come to see me for?”

“There’s one thing I would like to ask you.”

“Hmmm, and what would that be?”

“In the previous war …… you were part of the pursuers right? The pursuing party to chase after the fragment of the demon king as well as the retreating army of the demon king.”

“That’s right. Speed and stealth were an essential part of that mission, so many were not able to go, and I have been honored to pursue them as a representative of the wood elves. Among those who fought at that time, a plaque was given to the most outstanding wood elf-”

With just a few words, the character of the wood elf was shown. Leeha worked hard to match the wood elf’s rhythm by adding sounds of confirmation time and again.

“Just looking at the data, we could see how important the role of wood elves was in the pursuit at that time.”

“Hmm, the humans……. For some reason, I’m worried that I have overly praised what I did. In fact, it was a rather insignificant role.”

“Your too humble”. But what Leeha really wanted to say, I don’t really give a damn about even a single line from your story. but Leeha strongly held back those words.

Leeha only brought up his true purpose after giving the wood elf enough time to brag.

“Actually, I also wanted to ask you about the chase at the sea.”

“The sea? What about it?”

“In our records, it said that …… an unknown force stopped the pursuit from 5 to 6 nautical miles.”

“Oh, yes, even looking back at it now, it was an absurd inccident. I remember it like it was yesterday. It was the first time I saw the power of the 『Arcane Sniper』.”

Arcane Sniper! Leeha’s expression became serious.

“Was that really the Arcane Sniper?”

“Even the greatest wood elf magician cannot shoot at that distance. They would not be able to put enough mana. Of course, I heard that an Archmage was able to devastate a city with magic, but that is just a legend. And the magic was a meteor shower from the sky.” (ed: In theory the meteor shower magic thing sounds cool but I’m pretty sure if you were to apply a little logic. A meteor shower should do a little bit more than just destroy a city.)

It was a overly long speech but Leeha understood the important parts.

“In other words, we didn’t feel any mana, and there was no magic that could be shot as far as 10km away-”

“It is certain that the unknown enemy was the 『Arcane Sniper』.”

“Is the identity of 『Arcane Sniper』 a dark elf?”

As soon as he heard the question, the wood elf’s expression hardened. It was completely different from the way he had been proud of himself with a smile on his face.

“I know that wood elves do not lie. Much less a wonderful person like you would give me a false answer-”

“Of course. I am not that kind of elf.”

The wood elf slowly leaned back on the sofa and opened his mouth again.

“……I am not really sure.”

“Yes?”

As soon as Leeha heard the wood elf’s hesitant answer, Leeha answered back with confusion.

“At that time, I was sure that the 『Arcane Sniper』 was a dark elf, but now that I think about it, I don’t know.”

“But from our records-”

“I obviously said that. I said……. I mean there’s nothing that could have such evil energy but a dark elf. It’s a little different from the meaning “Arcane Sniper” if its a dark elf…”

The wood elf shrugged off his words.

Leeha felt like the answer came from a politician.

“Sir, are you saying that 『Arcane Sniper』 may not be a dark elf?”

“It could be a dark elf, but I am not 100% sure -to say the least- anyway, I don’t know what kind of existence it was. The only thing that I am certain of is that his two shots came from a distance of 10km.”

“In other words, the person who shot from a 10km distance was not a dark elf.”

“Well, if you have to interpret it tenaciously, that’s what it means……. Cough, cough.”

The wood elf coughed, meaning “Do you really have to keep doing that?”. Looking at his face, Leeha was convinced.

‘As expected.’

『Arcane Sniper』 was not a dark elf.

If that is the case.

Who else could it be?

(To be continued…)
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The conversation that started pleasantly ended in an atmosphere similar to Leeha being kicked out. The only thing he found out after his persistent questioning was the degree of confirmation his already existing assumptions.

‘It was not a dark elf. Even the wood elves didn’t know what it is!’

Was it just a ill fated relationship? To make the dark elves who they hate to also be hated by the public as well?

The persecution against the dark elves must have been much worse because it was from a wood elf’s words.

Leeha left Elm and immediately came to Aelstock and spoke to Browless.

“Then in the end-”

“There’s a possibility that the 『Arcane Sniper』 is a human. Of course, he said that he didn’t know who the person was…”

Browless would know better. Throughout the secound Human-Demon war, there were no snipers who could be opponents for the Three Musketeers..

Of course, there were monsters that could attack from a distance.

However, what could they do with their skills? Even if the Three Musketeers did not use any ‘skills’ and only used normal muskets, that alone would have been more than enough to deal with them.

If they could not compete with the Three Musketeers, they would have used the 『Arcane Sniper』 from the beginning. In fact, it was said that the command system of the demon king’s army was severely damaged by the Three Musketeers.

In other words, there was only one conclusion about who the identity behind the sudden appearance of the 『Arcane Sniper』 could be.

“No way…”

Browless’ body trembled slightly.

『You have completed the quest: The traces of two people 3.』

『You have acquired 20 stat points.』

『Skill- Chain Teleport : Three Musketeers have been learned.』

‘Oh?! Stat points and a skill?’


He also hoped that other items might be given.

Looking at Middle Earth’s behavior so far, the expectation was that he will be given a compass to chase the other members of the Three Musketeers. However, it was a whopping 20 stat points and a skill? It was like Middle Earth was ‘shooting big’.

『Path of Growth』

Explanation: ‘Are Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth the 『Arcane Sniper』? But why?…… However, as long as there’s a possibility, we cannot let our guard down. It would be in vain if I let the next generation of the Three Musketeers chase after them prematurely.’

Browless speculates that his former companions who had disappeared may have become the 『Arcane Sniper』. If it is true, it would be difficult to chase them with the current skills the next Generation of the Three Musketeers have. The director of the Musket Academy is waiting for the growth of the next generation of the Three Musketeers.

Description: Wait until Browless’ instruction is given

Reward : Quest – The Three Musketeers and the Three Musketeers

– Will you accept?

“If one of those two is the 『Arcane Sniper』, no, maybe both? After all, they have that kind of ability, it isn’t out of the question.”

“What if it’s too much……?”

“It’s not even something you can do anything about, for now, go and catch some monsters.

Improve your skills. When you reach the point where you can use all of the powers within you, I will call you again.”

Browless’ eyes were determined. There were not hunting instructions. Leeha tilted his head at the vague words of growing and being able to use all his strength.

“You mean Luger, Kidd, and me?”

“That’s right. The three of you must combine your powers.”

“I see. Okay.”

Leeha pressed the accept button. Bringing the power of the three people together? The director said that it would be easy but Leeha couldn’t help but think that he was in trouble.

At least I am close enough with Kidd. But sometimes his sense of rivalry is a little overwhelming, but conversation still works. But what about Luger?

‘Will he remember me breaking his shin? I hope he already forgot about that……’

His styled with pomade oil. Just imagining Luger as a wall with no visible gaps frightened him to the point that the hair on his skin rose. (ed: no clue what he means by pomade oil.)


“Please Leeha.”

“I…… understand.”

The quest could no longer progress right now. Leeha left the academy building. All he could think of was the expectation that the remaining road would be quite difficult.

‘In other words, a linked quest? It feels like joing quest 1.’

Leeha looked at the quest window.

“Phew-!”

No matter how much he looked at it, it was clear that he would not be able to do it alone.

‘It was what the director said. Unlock the rest of your ‘attributes’-, if that’s the case, it must also be related to his weapon.’

Then Leeha looked at the Black Bass. There were still 6 seals left.

Did it mean that he had to unseal all of it before they could proceed? It was no longer just a matter of level or stat growth. As Leeha knew, if he wanted to be someone who could shoot a target from 10km away, rich combat experience and skills to support him would be needed.

『Chain Teleport – Three Musketeers』

Explanation: Those with high soul affinity can use mana to move to each othere’s position.

Effect: Teleport to an activated friend(Limited number of people: Luger- Inactive, Kidd- Inactive)

Mana : 200 Cooldown : 2 hours

Fixed skill, no rank or level. He was wondering what Chain Teleport meant, but that was it. However, there’s a limitation that it can only be used between the three musketeers, and not all his registered friends in the friend window.

‘Hmm? Not only that…… It is a skill that can only be used after activation, but what was the status of the two people who had acquired the skill?

‘It’s like this.’

It’s still the same even if I don’t use it. There was no way that Luger and Kidd can use the skill to move to each other’s position. If everyone agrees and activates it, we don’t have to activate only one person to expose his position and the weakness of the surprise attack.

“And the premise of the agreement is already meaningless. Kidd was someone who never loses when it came to chivalry, but what about Luger? I’d be happy if I didn’t die. In the end, it said that skills were uselessl……. I should put my points it into agility.”

Now his agility was 1697.


Leeha stopped for a moment and checked his condition. How should he move from now on?

The dark elf quest needed time to walk for a month, the new continent exploration quest was put on hold after the war, Browless’ quest was also on hold.

‘Most importantly, there’s still a month left……’

It was the beginning of the National War. What did he need to do now? What was the most effective way to move?

It wasn’t just about leveling up. First, he needed to secure more agility points.

‘At that time, there were field bosses who were level 150 or higher…… haha.’

There were quite a few field bosses below level 150.

Of course, the lower the lever, the easier the monster is, so there will be more competitors, of course, it was not a problem for the current Leeha. 

‘First, raise his stats and unseal the Black Bass.’

Leeha immediately headed to the Holy Grill.

***

“How much is a normal health potion?”

“5 gold each.”

“Wait? How much?”

The user was terribly surprised. The merchant NPC just scratched the back of his head and said the same thing again.

“5 gold each.”

“How is an ordinary health potion so expensive? I wouldn’t pay that much for a special potion. No, is that right? 5 gold for an ordinary potion?”

“T-that can’t be helped. If we want to pay our taxes…”

“Oh, that’s crazy. All right, I won’t buy it. Dirty scammer.”

The user grumbled and spat on the floor! Stamped on it and left. Jachung watched from afar.

“This, our image…. Are we really going to be okay, guild master-nim?”

“There’s nothing we can do about it, for the time being. Even if our image is slightly damaged, don’t worry about it, because we can restore it at any time.”

Jachung was actually talking to the lord of the castle, Ram Hwayeon. She also bit her lip and watch her gamble.

“But if we stock up on supplies like this in a situation where we aren’t even sure about the war yet- if there’s no war-”

“That’s not possible. After all, we went to the Royal Palace to check the atmosphere several times. The war is surely going to happen. Until then, what we have to do is-”

Ram Hwayeon brought out her checklist.

“-securing as many items as possible. It goes without saying that, in any way, profits will remain as it is the business of the state. Our job is to get as many rights as possible other than simple profits by adjusting the price of each item.”

“Of course I know that, because I have heard the explanation, but……”

The prices of essential PVP items such as health potions, teleport scrolls, and abnormal status removal scrolls have all been raised. Normal users are not even able to buy them anymore.

In other words, it meant that Dale Castle was just piling up things while losing its capital.

If the money did not flow, Hwahong guild will inevitably suffer financial damage. What if the war did not happen?

Not only was the money not flowing, but even Dale Castle’s image was deteriorating. (ed: lol)

It’s like saying, let’s not use it again because it’s a place that make unbelievable amount of profit.

‘It’s okay. 70% of the items we are piling up can be doubled or tripled in price after the war. That alone is beneficial.’

And the lost trust and image? They could give the remaining 30% for free! It would go to the greatest battlefield the war is taking place on, and give it for free in the name of Hwahong.

Since the profits will be left elsewhere anyway, the trust and image will be restored with that work alone, and it will be better than before.

‘If we can even acquire the trust of the royal palace, that would be a bonus. It would be great if we could get government bonds or other provinces at a low price.’

The problem was timing.

War is already certain. But when? Even Ram Hwayeon wasn’t sure about that, so she couldn’t hide her uneasiness while making this kind of investment.

‘Our informants told us that there would be two to three weeks left……. What the hell is that man doing?’

Ram Hwayeon confirmed Leeha’s location from the friends’s window that was floating in front of her.

Where is he hunting. From Ram Hwayeon’s point of view, these were places that low-level people would likely go to.

‘He’s been only going to places like this for almost two weeks……. Is the war still far away to him? Is that why he is taking his time like this? If it was delayed for even a little while longer, the loss will be even greater.’

She wanted to ask. She wanted to send a whisper. No, regardless of the reason, she wanted to see Leeha’s face.

“However, Ram Hwayeon held back. 

‘Phew, if you don’t want to contact me first, then I don’t want to be the first to contact you.’

(ed: HA!, don’t worry no one’s missing you! At least that knight girl tried to ask Leeha out. God I hate people like this)

She had never been treated like this before, so she had no choice but to have more ambiguous feelings for Leeha.

All her life, she had only been supported by those around her. No man could escape from her looks and intellectual charm. (ed: what charm?( ͠─  ͟ʖ ͠─ ) )

‘Should I just call him first? No, no!’ Ram Hwayeon held back. She instinctively knew that ‘pushing and pulling’ was necessary in times like this.

Who was the target of pushing and pulling this time?

********

Bang——!

『Achievement: One Shot, one Kill – Stitched Spider(D+)』

Congratulations! You have insta-killed a Stitched Spider in one blow! Aren’t you ashamed to play in the beginner zone at your level? Make way for the next generation! But you still need to receive a small gift for the achievement, right?!

Reward: Strength +3, agility +5, intelligence +1

Without knowing anything about Ram Hwayeon’s feelings, Leeha had been focused in sweeping achievements for the past two weeks.

‘This the 17th achievement now……. It has come down to D+ level.’

He didn’t even get to the Hall of Fame. He had been greedily killing fieldbosses with the momentum of eating everything as long as it raised his agility even by a little bit.

‘C+, c, c-, everything that gave a lot of agility, but it’s still less than 2,000.’

He hadn’t reached 2,000. The result of not eating and sleeping for the past two weeks was al in vain.

Leeha opened his character window. Agility 1,862.

It meant that his agility level alone had risen by over 160 in two weeks.

‘I feel like my brain is going to break because of exhaustion, but five days will fly by if I go out to sleep…’

He rubbed his temples and rechecked his plan.

Could my agility increase by 140 points by getting D+, d, and D- ?

‘Can I do it? No. It must be done.’

There were still two weeks before the war. He didn’t know what would happen after that. Currently the way to live was to try as hard as humanly possible.

Leeha ripped a scroll and disappeared, the location of Leeha in Ram Hwayeon’s friend’s window also changed. Where did he go this time?

“I will go, Jachung. After the war starts, check the investment plan again.”

“Yes, guild master-nim.”

Ram Hwayeon turned around and snorted.

‘Perhaps Leeha is alo wondering how I’m doing. He will be contacting me soon!’

It was unfortunae for her that that would never happen.

Of course, Leeha’s indifferent behavior further ignited Ram Hwayeon’s feelings.

(ed: these lame side-plot romance/not romance thing is so annoying, if we have to have this in the story the least the author could do is make the rich kid characters likable. Also isn’t she like 16 or something? Or is this the red head talking.)

(To be continued…)
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“What’s happening today?”

“I don’t know? Why?”

“No, like, why are the NPCs constantly moving…? Even the knights and soldiers.”

“Isn’t it just for a subjugation quest?”

“If it is a subjugation quest, they should go to the Sentinel Mountains. They are fully armed and headed southwest.”

“I guess there are monsters out there too. What do we know, anyway let’s go level up.”

The atmosphere in Aelstock, began to change. Most of the normal users didn’t know the information about the war, but they had also sensed that something was different from usual.

‘Is there about a week left?’

Leeha wandered around the capital with hazy eyes. For three weeks, he only clung to achievements.

In the real world, he only slept for 8 hours within 4 days. It meant he was connected for 3 days and 16 hours. (ed: Uh, I know the war is important and stuff but lack of sleep can kill you. Does he really want to die before he can get his legs back?)

‘It was originally like that. That’s what sniping is like. Even the seniors said it was standard to wait a week.’

A sniper is someone who snipes by laying down, poops, pees, and waits for the target.

A ruler who ends the war? The flower of the battlefield? Reaper?

There was even a joke that all those cool nicknames were there to cover up the smell of shit. (ed:( ⚈ - ⚈ ))

‘Well, it’s not even a week. No, actually, it’s the 4th day, but my brain had been running for three weeks-’

He now felt his thoughts staggering.

Despeite this situation, Leeha’s obsession with achievements did not weaken.

As the grade went down, it was getting harder and harder, but there was a time limit so he had to hurry.


‘It was still fine until C- rank.’

However, as he got to D rank, the stats that was given decreased, and the monsters that gave agility became rare.

In addtion, since it was near the hunting grounds of a large number of users, it became difficult to get the “One shot, one kill” achievement.

‘It meanst that if even one of those leveling hit the target, I will not get the one hit one kill achievement.’

The achievement will only appear if you literally reduce all of the target’s health in one shot. (ed: yes, we know)

“Come on, fifty-”

“Vodka Martini, shaken, not stirred. Guide me quick-heee.”

Leeha almost dozed off, as he entered the Holy Grill Capital Branch. The waitress was taken aback for a moment, but took Leeha to Madame Ju.

“Long time no see? Well, don’t you look tired?”

“I am not tired. I haven’t slept for days…”

Leeha sat down, and Madame Ju brought tea. It was pepperminty with a tangy scent.

“Enough sleep is essential. Because the most important thing to live in Middle Earth is health. In particular, foreigners should get adequate rest. If you don’t sleep, your brain will be stressed and you will be stressed, which is directly related to the deterioration of health-”

“Hmm. Don’t worry.”

Even if she didn’t explain it like a game company’s guide, Leeha was fully aware of it.

Leeha swallowed back the words and tea and asked Madame Ju.

“Do you know the time of the war…?”

“I think it will be ten days from now.”

There’s a huge amount of information required everyday in the royal palace, so you can guess.”

“Keu, as expected of Madame Ju. That’s right. Anyway, I’m here to tell you that. It’s information from the Sacred Knights, so it is trustworthy. Exactly seven days from now, the declaration of war will will be announced.”

Leeha told Madame Ju the information he received from Shin Nara.


After all, NPCs like the king and Madame Ju will know about this anyway, so he could gain favor by using it like this.

“7 days. The person who gets such information from the Sacred Knights-”

“-Shhh. Pretend that you don’t know.”

Leeha winked at Madame Ju.

Madame Ju also noticed that this information came from Shin Nara. She smiled contentedly.

“You wouldn’t have said anything for nothing……. If you look at where Leeha-nim is, you must have come to ask something else, right?”

“Did you think I came here just for some tea?”

Madame Ju looked at Leeha’s stats

If there was one thing that had changed significantly from the last time, it was the overwhelming increase in agility. Based on the data, the NPC already noticed what Leeha’s intentions were.

“You want to know the location of monsters that can increase agility the most?”

Leeha nodded at Madame Ju’s words, and shook it again. She already knew. That wasn’t the only reason he looked for Madame Ju.

“Well, on top of that, if possible-”

It was another condition that Leeha believed must be met before the start of the war. After hearing Leeha’s explanation, madame Ju immediately pointed to the map of Fibiel.

***

Hoooot….. Hooot…..

“I-isn’t this too scary?”

“That’s why you shouldn’t come at night.”

“Then what? It’s a monster that only appears at night!”

The only thing they heard in the forest was an unknown cry. One warrior, one archer, one mage, and one healer.

The party of four moved slowly, and leaned on the torch. It wasn’t like the forest without light, but forest’s at night were always dark.


Hooot… Hooot…

“After all, it’s a field boss. If it appears, the system notification window will pop up.”

“It it had already appeared, you wouldn’t see it, would you?”

“Ah, right.”

The four users, who were in their 90s, came to catch the field boss that appeared in this forest. It was quite a bit lower than their level, but they couldn’t be vigilant enough.

“I can’t see.”

“Shall we use light magic?”

“No. We shouldn’t use it. They said that if the light is too strong, it will not approach.”

“Anyway, field bosses have a lot of conditions.”

Relying only on the dim moonlight and bare torches, the users continued walking throught the forest. The conversation they had was also greatly reduced.

The surrounding landscape as you would expect continued to be forest, forest and forest.

It was an environment where it was difficult to properly understand where they were walking. At one point, all they could hear was the sound of their footsteps and breathing.

Silence that was close to stillness passed.

And although it seemed to fit best with the night forest, the thing that should never exist was stillness.

“……Isn’t it…. too quiet?”

“Come to think of it, I haven’t heard the cry that we had been hearing before-”

The magician tilted his head. The healer was about to answer.

“Oh, oooh-! B-b-behind!!!!”

Something approached behind them. The archer knotched his bowstring.

He saw two glowing orbs. They were clearly ‘eyes’ shining yellow under the light of the torch. They were each the size of a human face.

Kyaaaack-!!”

“Shield cover! Hit it while I tank!”

The owl, as huge as a tree that had grown out of the forest, attacked from behind without flapping its wings. It was unbelievable quiet for its size.

The warrior quickly grabbed his shield and ran to the healer, but the owl’s claw had already scratched the back of the healer.

“Cast-!”

“Piercing Arrow!”

The magiciacn and the archer started their counterattacks one after another, but the arrow hit a wooden pole without touching its target-.

“Where did it go!? My casting is over!”

A colorless fireball floated into the air. The giant owl was already gone.

“Is she okay?”

The warrior took out a potion and poured a little onto the healer’s back and put it in her mouth. The healer was only able to recover health by drinkig the potion.

“This! Isn’t this different from what you were talking about?! You said that you could hit it when it gets closer?”

“I don’t have much health…. I didn’t know it would us attack by surprise.”

“What? Why was there no sound? A bird of that size came near us, so why didn’t we hear anything?”

“By the way, it’s eyes were really big. Wahh, I’m afraid it will come out again in a fucking dream. Its bigger than a stork.”

The archer, who was the first to discover the boss, admired it, but the healer who was attacked could not laugh.

The boss literally came and went without making a sound.

If the archer had reacted any slower, the giant owl would have taken her to its nest and devoured her.

“Once we carry a torch, it will come again. This time, let’s keep a close eye and catch it.”

“Yes. One of us looking at east, west, north, and south. Look above. We can’t just look in front of us and suddenly get hit from above-”

The warrior tilted his head as he gave the instructions.

“Didn’t you just say something?”

“I heard the sound of a branch breaking in the distance. Did you feel that pounding?”

“No.”

Ddak! Wasn’t that what you were saying?”

“Why does the sound matter! Look closely for the owl or owls flying!”

The party members bowed their heads as the healer screamed.

Protecting the healer was the top priority for both dealers and tanks, but she almost got killed by a surprise attack….

So the four party member wandered around the forest. If they had noticed that there was another person in the forest, everyone would have logged out and went to sleep.

***

『Achievement: One Shot, one Kill – Giant Owl(D)』

Congratulations! You Insta-killed the Giant Owl in one blow! Aren’t you ashamed of playing in the beginner zone at your level? Make way for the next generation! But you still need to receive a small gift for the achievement, right?!

Effect: Strength +1, agility +6, intelligence +1

“Why bother using the Hummingbird, when it’s one shot? Aigoo, my back.” (ed: wait this is a game why would it make his back hurt?)

Leeha stood on the corspse of the owl the size of a human. It was said that it would make a surprise attack without making a sound, and would still be unnoticeable even when the big guy flew in for the kill.

‘Even though I didn’t have light, I still knew that it was near.’

He laid face down in a place where even the moonlight did not properly shine. If Leeha had not used ‘Mana Clairvoyance’ at the right time, its sharp attack would have hit him.

“Phew, it’s because it is that good at night. Okay, this is the last one. I have to hurry up and go to sleep.”

After Leeha finished looting, he immediately ripped a scroll.

After a while, he arrived in Hell Anvil, at Bottleneck’s Blacksmith.

“Bo-ttle-Neck-Nim!”

It was midnight, but Leeha was unrelenting. He did not have time to think about the NPC’s circumstances right now. Because he thought he would die of sleep deprivation.

“What is it?!”

After a while, the door opened and Bottleneck appeared. Seeing Leeha’s figure, his beard shook! And he trembled.

“I’m going to order some items.”

“Again, you monster! Really?! In the middle of the night!”

“I’m not a monster. It’s good that Bottleneck-nim could study various materials because of me.”

Leeha heard him and went inside. Bottleneck didn’t even have time to respond before Leeha took the items out of his bag.

“Now, I didn’t know what you were going to need, so is it okay that I brought all of them. 『Giant Owl’s Pupil』, 『Golden Bat’s Cochlea』, and 『Silver-Bell Snake’s Forked Tongue』. It doesn’t matter if you use light, infrared, or ultrasound, so please make something that allows me to see in the dark.”

“W-what? What are you talking about-”

“Please make a Night Vision. I’m sleepy so I will only explain once. Bring me some paper.”

He said with a yawn.

There wasn’t a single thing that Bottleneck liked, not to mention the weird material on the table, and Leeha’s poor attitude.

“If only I could get rid of you, I would get rid of all my beard if it meant I could do that.”

“Haha, a 15 gold deposit, 35 gold after you succeed. I have brought more than the scope.”

“……I swear to the god of anvil. Even if I give up my beard, I will scold you one day.”

While the dwarf in pajamas said so, he chuckled and grabbed the bag of money Leeha had put down.

The completion of the Night Vision equipment was Leeha’s final piece of preparations for the war, that was quickly approaching.

(To be continued…)
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Riririiiiing- rrriiiiing-.

As soon as the alam went off, Leeha’s body soared as if he was about to fly.

“Hhhupp!”

Of course, only his upper body moved. As soon as he got up, he looked back at his thighs and calves, but he didn’t feel anything.

Leeha already knew. But it was a habit he developed after surgery.

“Ahhhh……. I slept for 14 hours.”

He had set an alarm just in case, but he really fell asleep right until the alarm went off. Leeha moved from his bed, finished a quick meal, and rolled over to the computer.

Leeha’s mother was worried about her son’s irregular lifestyle, but Leeha just smiled and nodded.

‘I don’t know about the reward of the national war, mom. But I might earn more in there than working hard on field bosses.’

All this hardship was for the sake of his surgery.

In a sense, it was close to a pleasant ascetism. Leeha went to Middle Earth’s largest community forum as soon as he turned his computer on.

『Title: FR, there’s a war??? The hell???』

『Title: So when is this war going to start, you bastards!!!』

『Title: Reorganization of rankers’ nationality so far.txt』

 『Title: What happens to Shazrashian Federation? Can I change nationality?』 Rising Sun was a small incident.

The war between Byulcho and Hwahong was interesting.

However, this was a great event where everyone was forcibly conscripted! It was only natural that the reaction of the Middle Earth-related community around the world would explode.

‘Before I went to sleep, there were 6 days left, and now 14 hours have passed in the real world. Then, there’s still 3 days in Middle Earth time.


until the war breaks out…’

Now, most of the users from Fibiel, minis, and Kraven Kingdom knew the truth. Naturally, exchanges between the countries had ended, and asylum was no longer possible.

“As for the timing, my information will be more reliable…”

In the meantime, while looking on the list of articles being updated in real time.

『Title: Reorganization of rankers’ nationality so far.txt 』

I will only check the top 10 first.

Minis: Alexander(1), Petyr(5), Chiyou(7), Faust(8)

Fibiel: Lee Jiwon(2), Pei Wu(4), Shin Nara(6), Ram Hwajung(9), Bobae(10)

The others, perhaps their Shazrashian? Agromni Igor(3)

If you look at the rankers alone, isn’t it comparable? What about Igor?

-Bitch LOLOLOL Does Minis have no one to fight on the front?

Assassin Petyr, dancer Chiyou, necromancer FaustLOLOLOL All of them are damage dealers.

– No, when Alexander appears and 100 people stands in front of him, 100 users will die, if 1000 users appear, 1000 users will die. Bow down to Alexander!

-What is going on with Kraven? No rankers?

Kraven has a mid-ranking ranker. It’s going to be tough keeping those dogs in check.

-There’s a lot of rankers in Fibiel, right? Are you a Kraven bastard?

-Yeah, Fibiel is ruined~Just come on a ship and eat everything.

There were hundreds of comments from users of each countries. Leeha looked at the comments, but he couldn’t predict victory or defeat with this small amount of information alone.

‘There’s certainly a difference in power…’

If one looked at the top 10 alone, it can be said that it was equal.


However, Alexander appeared, who belonged to Minis, which left even Lee Jiwon grinding his teeth, it’ll be a variable! What kind of battle will Middle Earth’s first Ascendant show?

‘It only came out briefly in the comments, but Kraven can’t be ignored either.’

When creating a character for the first time in Middle Earth, the nationality is randomly distributed, but the frame is set to some extent depending on the region or country which one belonged to. (ed: Then its not randomly distributed now is it?)

In case of Northeast Asia and America, it was Fibiel.

For Europe and Central Asia, it was Minis.

Lastly, UK, west-South-East Asia and Oceania for Kraven.

In other words, it meant that it included Turkey from the West, india from the south, Vietnam in the Southeast Asia, as well as Australia and New Zealand.

‘It was random that Biyemi, a Vietnamese, came to Candle Castle, which was part of Fibiel, and Alexander, an American, is in Minis……. Anyway, Kraven also has a huge population. Maybe it’s because their nationality is close to the sea, that’s why it is said that there are many people who are good at navigation.’

It would be a headache if they tried to seize the city by blocking the coast of Fibiel, or landed when they went to fight Minis.

‘Besides, what if we consider the outsiders?’

Of course, victory and defeat was unknown. In was getting more complicated just thinking about it, but one had to consider the power of the Outsiders and NPCs as well.

“Good…… Great. The more variables, the more complex it is.”

There was room for action. And what would be the result of Leeha’s activities. With a weighty dream of being able to get his surgery, Leeha connected to Middle Earth again.

His location did not change because he logged out immediately. Leeha exlaimed with a laugh.

“Are you there! Bottleneck-ssi, are you finished?”

“……The boss hasn’t come back yet.”

“Hmm? Where did he go?”

It was the Beard brothers who greeted Leeha at the Bottleneck’s Smithy. The two dwarves looked depressed and angry.

“He’s being investigated for chimera experiment.”

“Huh? What chimera? Do you make those things at the forge?”


“For who do you think it was! Who made the boss do such an awful investigation-”

“W-wait!”

When one of the two dwarves tried to run at Leeha, the other one caught him. However, even the other dwarf did not have a friendly gaze toward Leeha.

“It’s because of what you commissioned! You wanted to make eyeglasses from the body parts of all kinds of animals! Our life-”

“Ah……. No, did he cause such a misunderstanding because of me? No, speaking of chimera still- what did he buy! What did he try to mix?. What kind of idiot took Bottleneck-ssi for mixing owls and rattlesnakes?”

A chimera is a kind of monster. It was what Leeha roughly knew.

A monster aritificially created by adding the characteristics of a beast to a monster. The only information available was that it was created by an NPC magician called ‘Mad Scientist’.

“L-last time, Quiquero’s lens also……. Anyway, why did boss Bottleneck keep accepting your request? I don’t know why the boss, who is unkind to other strangers, is only doing this for you!”

Was it kindness?

Anyway, just not rejecting the request could be considered kindness, but in Leeha’s opinion, he wasn’t very kind. (ed: In my opinion you aren’t very nice to him either.)

“I’m sorry. So…… Did he finish it?”

“Fan the house, it’s on fire-!”

“Money! Moneyy! We need to get the money first. We don’t even know the bargain this time.”

As soon as Leeha took out the money, the Beard Brothers attittude softened.

“……Over there.”

The Beard Brothers pointed at a place where a box was located at the same time.

Leeha gave the money bag and quickly opened the box. A paired of goggles mixed with purple and black caught his eyes.

Night vision was something he had dealt with in the military a few times Leeha ran into a corner and blocked the surrounding light and tried to mount the goggles.

What did he see with a cold feeling in his eyes……?

“This is why I’m here.”

He had a smile that could not be erased. Leeha took off the night vision, wrapped it in a cloth and put it in his bag. If light entered it continuously, the lens – all parts of an animal – may be damaged.

“Now! Then, I will come again next time! You have to make me bullets soon.”

“Fuuuu.”

The Beard Brothers couldn’t help but turn around.

Leeha looked for brass ingot in his spare time, even when he was getting one-shot achievements. Since that was one of the main sources of income for the Bottleneck’s Forge, they had no objection.

“Good. Last.”

Leeha tore tore a scroll. After finally getting the night vision gear, there was only one thing left to do.

Hunting a monster that was level 170 or higher from 1500m away.

The place where Leeha went was near a beach on the western part of Fibiel.

‘I can’t be in a crowded place. The target doesn’t have to be small. Even if the target is large, it should be easy to secure a distance.’

A hunting ground that could satisfy all three conditions was extremely rare. The place Leeha managed to find was where there were level 170-180 monsters, but it was difficult to hunt so users avoided it.

‘King Crab!’

It was not something one could eat at a restaurant. In Middle Earth, if there was a ‘King’ modifier, it could be said that its size as well as its characteristics were strengthened 100 times.

It was a hunting ground where the literally gigantic crabs cut, tear, and shred people!

The shell of a crab was the size of a truck and it was so large that if an ordinary warrior hit it, it wouldn’t even leave a scratch.”

“Now then.”

Leeha opened the case and took out the Legendary Black Bass. His MP was continuously being decreased, but his recovery rate was faster, so luckily, he had sufficient mana.

He made the floor sturdy enough so that the long Black Bass barrel was stably fixed, and he opened the bipod and raised the gun.

The direction of the muzzle, was of course, the beach.

He turned his rifle to the king crab, whose outlies could be seen from 1,500m away.

“Phew……. It’s been a long time since I aimed at this distance.”

And Leeha took a stance.

It felt different from 1,000m previously. Compared to Leeha maximum shooting range, it could not be said to be too far away.

‘But 1,500m is almost the same as my personal best. No matter how fast the muzzle velocity is, the aiming point must be captured well.’

The effect of wind and gravity was more severe. Searching for a hunting ground that satisfied the conditions had some unavoidable disadvantages.

The sea breeze was too strong.

‘The wind speed is 11……? No, 12. If you look at the distance, it would be correct to calculate it around 13m/s. The wind direction is northeast. Even at the same wind speed, it should be considered that there’s more than 10 times more interference than shooting from 300m away.’

Leeha opened the scope’s cap.

If he magnified it up to 30x, he could see the huge king crab as if he was looking at it from 50m away.

‘Hoooom, as expected. I want to bring this scope to the real world.’

Next, he had to take the virtual zero point.

Leeha could instinctively know where the zero point he had set last time would reach when it was shot at a distance of 1,500m.

If it was a musket, he would have shot by changing the direction of the muzzle. In fact sniping up to 444m had been done that way.

For example, if he wanted a headshot to pierce the center of the face where the nose was, he would fire it toward the chin.

However, black Bass and the sniper’s scope created by Leeha was different.

The basic principle of the sniper with a scope was ‘If you want to shoot the nose, aim at the nose’. In other words, he needed to know how to use the scope to set the zero point.

‘Even though the standard was set to 26mm per click, it must be turned more than half a turn. The direction of the wind was different, so I have to go about 12 clicks to the right, no about 13 clicks.’

More than 30 clicks of adjustment.

Sniping was impossible using the common sense for shooting. It was also the reason why ultra-long-range sniping was impossible in the first place without a scope with this much precision.

‘Sniping isn’t about shooting a few shots until you hit. It’s one shot, it’s all over with one shot. So…’

Leeha put his eye on the scope.

From 1,500m away, he saw the king crab walking.

The king crab was unaware that someone was aiming at it, and only showed its regular movements, shoveling its eye into its shell when the wind blew. Following the movement of the target, Leeha meticulously and quickly caught the horizontal and vertical zero point and cleared his breathing.

“Phew……. I have to finish it with this distance without any other skills.”

With the feeling of his whole body being stuck to the ground, all of his senses were focused on his fingers.

In fact, he did zero-point adjustments, but that was still not enough. At least two zero-point shots were needed to make it a safe shot.

It was because information on the impact force of the Black Bass by distance and wind was not separately organized, so it must be tested just to make sure.

That was if he was an ‘ordinary sniper’.

“Haa…”

Leeha exhaled. And pulled the trigger.

Baaaaaang—……!

The corner of the shooter’s mouth, who could even control his heart, slowly rose. A marinated crab fell from the king crab beyond the scope. But, Leeha was not an ‘ordinary sniper’. (ed: Leeha’s not like other girls.)

(To be continued…)
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『You have leveled up.』

『You have completed the quest ‘Black Bass’ Seal-2′.』

『You have learned the skill – Camouflage.』 『The quest ‘Black Bass’ Seal-3′ has been created.』

“Phew……. He’s not done yet, hahaha.”

He embarrassingly called himself in the third person. When Leeha saw the notification window saying that the second quest of the Black Bass had benn completed, he couldn’t help laugh out loud.

‘I can still do it. After all, I’m fine.’

He was active in Middle Earth. Much of the confidence that he had gained from the incident had died down, but with this has now been once again revived. However, one thing was still not certain, the sniper.

Shooting a musket at 100m or 200m was a difficult task in game, but it was a far cry from what Leeha had been capable of in the military.

The musket, as well as Leeha.

‘But I’m back now……. I’m back!’

The longest distance Leeha recorded as a sniper in the All-Army Counter-Sniper Battle was 1,833m.

Although he was discharged as a volunteer, it was still the longest distance record in the history of the ROK military that had not been broken since.

Although there was a difference of 333m, the confidence and sense of achievement that he succeeded at 1,500m again boosted Leeha’s mood.

“Okay then~ let’s take a look. Please don’t be ridiculous, I hope-”

『Black Bass’ Seal-3』

Description : “This guy is alive! The more this thing tasts blood and flesh, the more powerful it becomes. The legendary dwarf placed seven seals on the Black Bass…. On the day the right user appears, black Bass will awaken……. The legendary rifle is awaiting the moment the “one” to appears to rise from its slumber.

Content : Defeat a monster at level 190 or higher at the distance of 2,000m(0/1)

Reward: ???


“-it’s not something too ridiculous……. Something ridiculous popped up before I could even finish saying it!.”

He couldn’t even laugh when he saw the contents of the quest he was waiting for. Leeha read and re-read the quest again and again.

The content was unfortunately….still the same. The only thing that changed was the number.

Does that mean that it’s true that the distance increases by 500m and the level by 20 every time he moves on the next quest?

‘Isn’t this crazy? Seven seals?’

Two thousand meters on the third? Then it must be 2,500m on the fourth, and 3000m on the fifth, and so on?

‘Is that even possible? It said that the range is increased by using a snipe skill, but if the Black Bass is a gun based on the Mk-’

It’s effective range was 2000m. There has to be a 30% increase to 2,600m.

Of course, that is, if all possible abilities were used.

Being able to shoot and hit the target are two completely different things. The movement of 0.1mm of the muzzle will diverge by 10m outside of 2,000m.

‘Even assuming it’s correct, the fourth quest appears to be the limit. The 5th, 6th, and 7th quests are…’

However, the targets were not going to be stationary either.

Now, even if there were monsters of that level, if the quests goes on, how much more will the levels of the targeted monster go up?

“This is making me feel sick. Hey, maybe I should try not thinking about it until when the time comes!”

First, he had to check the new skill that he had acquired!

『Camouflage』

Description: The predator just waits until the prey arrives. The prey cannot see the predator.

Effect: Disguised with the shape and color of the surrounding objects. (Ignores detection from search-type skills and scrolls)

Mana: 300

Duration: Canceled when the body moves more than 1m per minute


Cooldown from release: 12 hours

“Hmm?”

Cannot be seen. However, was it possible to check with the naked eye? If you look at the meaning of disguising the shape and color of the surrounding objects, camouflage meant only one thing.

‘Gili suit……? No, if it’s the biggest disadvantage of the gili suit-’

It was cumbersome. Literally, the shape and color of the surrounding objects must be followed as they are, so grass and soil were only natural, and even a camouflage net must also be added. Not to mention the weight, mobility must be completely abandoned.

In other words, it meant that this skill could erase all of those shortcomings!

‘Besides, does that mean that it can ignore detection and search magic?’

Can it only be seen by the naked eye?!

However, you can literally ‘see’ it, but you are not able to ‘recognize’ it! As the description said, the prey won’t be able to see the predator.

As Leeha was familiar with it, it was nearly impossible to virtually impossible to find the hidden sniper that is using a gili suit.

“Indeed……. It was worth the difficulty.”

If the rewards are like this, of course he should complete the quests. His level also went up. The king crab was not a field boss, and had no achievement, but he was satisfied with this.

“Because I was able to level up this time. Character Window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level : 161 (0%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 92

Stats – HP: 4,410(3,087) MP: 1,155

Strength: 279(+195)

Agility: 1,996(+817)

Intelligence: 148(+97)


Constitution: 145(+52)

Mind: 40(+30)

Remaining Stat Points: 5

It was the achievements he got from the low-level field bosses by almost giving up his health. He had 92 achievements.

Considering that there were only around 50 a few days ago, one could guess the number of achievements Leeha obtained by playing so in the past three weeks. Leeha was second to none in his obsession with getting the One Shot, one Kill achievement.

However, that was not what Leeha was focusing on now.

His agility was 1,996. He had 5 remaining stat points.

“Finally!”

He put four in agility. And the remaining one to strength, he now had 280 strength and 2000 agility.

‘Phew……. I’m ready.’

Leeha put the Black Bass in its case. All that was left was the supply, and Leeha tore a teleport scroll to go to the Brass Golem.

***

“-Therefore, during any war, only the direct harm to the supremacy of another country has been taboo! But what about the arrogant Minis! Even after the unprecedented event of breaking the taboo with their own hand, they are still audacious!”

In the Royal Palace of Fibiel. Normally, the inner door was tightly close, but it was different now.

A roaring voice came out through the wide open gap, and users who could not enter the palace were outside.

Users who could enter went inside and listened to the conversation of the NPCs who inspected the garden.

As usual, there were likely to be bad players who joked with NPCs, but in the current atmosphere, no one could do that.

The die had now been cast.

“The only thing we can show to those unrepentant barbarians is anger full of blood and manners that only civilized people can have! Whether it is the barbarians of the land, or the barbarians of the sea, it doesn’t make a difference! They started it, but we will end it! Cheer, for his Majesty The King!” (ed: I don’t know about you, but anger full of blood doesn’t sound like civilized manners to me, but you do you I guess)

Clap, clap, clap.

As soon as the high priest finished speaking, one of the four NPCs walked out.

“Ohh-!”

The NPCs stayed quiet, but the users could not help but admire him. He wore a brilliantly shiny silver full-plate armor. White boots that matched his armor. Even the strong thigh muscles that were second to none. The NPC was an old man with a worthy appearance, and was a relatively famous one among the users.

“It’s Granville! The 4 pillars’ Granville!”

“Isn’t he the Knight Academy’s teacher?”

“That’s right! He’s the person I saw during my last quest…… Amazing.”

“Wow, that person must have been the commander in the second human-demon war, he’s still alive.”

Granville knelt before his king of the Fibiel nation. The king slowly rose from his seat. The high priest, who raised his voice in front of the podium, delivered the sword to the king.

“You are appointed as the commander-in-chief of the army for this war. Your orders will be the same as my orders.”

Granville raised his hands high above with his head bowed. The king placed the sword directly in his hand, which was held up.

“Now, clean the map, Granville.”

“As you command.”

Remove the names of Minis and Kraven from the map.

Granville understood the king’s clear command to direct the destruction of their enemy nations. The users shouted with cheers as they watched the ceremony, which was sacred.

“Waaaahh! Let’s go! Let’s go!”

“Let’s kill those Minis bastards! Let’s go, fibieeeeeeel!!”

“If we win the siege, will we be give castles too?!”

There were even users who were so excited they cast and flew into the air. Of course, they were immediately sanctioned by the Sacred Knights, but even in an atmosphere that could be considered festive, one person felt differently .

‘Should I really leave it like this?…… Middle Earth? You’re saying you want one country to beat another?’ (ed: if you hate it that much then you can always quit the game)

Shin Nara was worried. She was really worried.

An ominous feeling that this might not be a venue for a festival but a prelude to chaos coud not leave her mind.

Granville held up the sword he had been given by the king. He lowered the tip of the sword that was shining in the sunlight and pointed at the inner door, then said briefly.

“Advance!”

Finally, the war between Fibiel and Minis-Kraven Alliance began.

『National War Outbreak』

Description: War will take everything from you. All you can do is take everything from the enemy before that.

Contents:

Contribution will be earned after successfully followig orders (Deduction in case of death)

Reward: Final compensation for the accumulated contribution after the end of the war.

Condition for Failure –

Death of the King of affiliated country

Death of the Commander-In-Chief of the affiliated country

Surrender of the Commander-In-Chief of the affiliated country

Commander in Chiefs:

Fibiel: The Pillar – Granville

Minis: The Fox of the Prairie – Ewin

Kraven: The Second Storm – Drake

Upon Failure: No compensation

『All users in your country are subject to compulsary conscription』

『Users from enemy country are treated as monsters. You can acquire the appropriate level of experience.』

『Level will not go down when you die from a user of another country.』

『You can receive detailed quests in the battlefield of your country.』

『Fibiel-Minis: Near the Marching Plains』

『Fibiel-Krave: Near the Dike Coast』

***

“Let’s go.”

Leeha packed the magazing into his bag and looked at the notification window that appeared in front of him.

The quest outline didn’t even tell him what to do. He could follow the contents of the detailed quest and perform it.

‘Is it fortunate that the level does not go down? I can’t even say that I’m lucky.’

It is only exempt for losing levels. This meant that not all death penalties were removed.

In other words, item drops and 48 hours of inaccessibility were still there. Anyone who was not fully aware of this difference will suffer greatly from the start.

‘Three conditions for defeat.’

Defeat is confirmed by the death of the king or commander-in-chief.

Even if the two NPCs are left alive, the declaration of surrender meant defeat as well. Then an unconditional attack was not required. The protection of key factors must also be addressed at all cost.

If it’s the king’s assassination- well, the royal guards won’t stand still.’

The last time they said it was nonsense, but now they can’t.

If the best of the Sacred Knights were sent to the palace in large numbers, assassinating the king will be more difficult than plucking the stars.

‘Petyr is mainly active in Midnight Circus, but in any case, he belongs to Minis.’

Leeha imagined.

If he was a member of Minis, what was the fastest way to end the war?

“To make Petyr kill Granville.”

The commander-in-chief will be near the battlefield. He was also not on the side of the shoreline where the navy operated, which mainly focused on being a lookout, but near Minis, which was the main enemy.

‘Long time no see.’

Leeha’s destination. If it was the Marching Plains, it was a place that he was already familiar with. He moved to Nitai, a small town, using a warp gate.

(To be continued…)

(ed: Hmm, I wonder if Leeha is going to die during this war? I think it could create some good tension with him losing some items and not being able to join the war for two days.)
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“Wow…”

As soon as he entered Nitai through the warp gate, Leeha suddenly felt like he was being squished.

“We are recruiting members! Someone who will be with us throughout the war!”

“I’m a level 140 Healer! I have a lot of raid experience, so please take me with you oppas!”

“Here!”

“Come here!”

“Healer, come with us! An acquaintance of my cousin’s cousin in our raid team is a tanker!”

“Maru Guild is recruiting guild members! We are planning to create 3 raid teams! Please support us! Applicants must be level 150 or higher~”

“Ah, damn…… What kind of forge does this town have? Where do you repair weapons?”

“If you go out the south gate and go to the field camp, it’s there. It’s a bit pricey but they do a good job.”

Although it was only a village, it was a place where a warp gate was installed.

Although it was smaller than a city, it’s size is still quite large. However, Leeha’s vision was only filled with people right now.

‘These people……. Were there really this many people in Middle Earth?’

The hunting grounds and the town square of the capital would not be able to compare. It was the largest even in a game with over 100 million subscribers, therefore, there should be a lot of concurrent viewers.

“This place is already at war. Ahh.”

Leeha walked toward the south gate. He had to go to the field camp to receive the detailed war-related quest, and he was told the location just in time.

‘There are still plenty of potions and scrolls given by Ram Hwajung.’

He also had sufficient ammunition.


He put it in a bag and tested it to the effect that it did not have any effect on weight. He currently had 50 magazines, for a total of 250 bullets.

‘And there are still 150 more bullets in the warehouse.’

He had enough empty space. He was ready to eat any drop items!

‘The problem is, how many chances do I get to eat? ‘

He had so many competitors and he was a sniper. He had to keep in mind the possibility that he could spend money and get any dropped items.

‘Still, could I make up for it with the contribution reward? It it’s money-’

Tak-!

After thinking for a while, someone grabbed Leeha’s shoulder, who was moving in between people.

“Hmm? This cold feeling-” A cold-blooded hand grabbed him. Leeha turned his head around to see a friendly face.

“Kiskis, what are you thinking so hard about? You can’t even hear me when I was calling you.”

“Biyemi-nim! Are you joining this war too?”

“This isn’t something that can missed.”

He was a player who put his growth first above all. Besides, Biyemi, the strongest assassin in the past, who had already been apart of the top 10.

Just the fact that he appeared here made Leeha feel good. Because, it meant that what he could get from this war was more than he could ever even imagine.

“Have you been well?”

“Kiskis. Of course. Thanks to…”

“Thanks to?”

“Huh, haven’t you heard it yet? Haven’t you seen this?”

“Come to think of it, I haven’t seen that cloak?!”

Biyemi, who had only worn protective gears at the level of cover, wore a cloak for some reason. As he turned around and showed the pattern drawn on the cloak, Leeha’s mouth opened.


Three yellow stars on a blue background was a well-known guild mark.

“Byulcho! W-when-”

“After the last Royal Palace quest, I joined. Kiskis, halihali-nim’s younger hyung was more amazing than I thought? He is so much better than me in leading a party, it puts my past self to shame.”

Biyemi met Kijung and Tale a few times after Shin Nara’s quest to protect the king.

Up to a certain level, he was able to do crazy leveling alone, but Biyemi, who saw the limitations of a magician, wanted to party with someone he could trust. In addition, the people who he could play with him at a similar level and could be trusted were limited.

In other words, the fact that Biyemi joined Byulcho meant that even if he had a party with Kijung and Tale, who had reached level 220, he could still share experience points.

Leeha also understood from Biyemi’s words.

“Wow……. Kijung is actually good. No, but that guy, something like this happened and he didn’t-”

“Hey, I was going to tell you today, hyung.”

“It’s been a while, Leeha-kun.”

“Kijung-ah! Tale-nim!”

In addtion to Kijung and Tale, there were several users wearing Byulcho’s cloak. The power brought by Byulcho was so strong that the nearby users slowly opened the way.

“Is hyung going to join the war as well?”

“Of course. Are you afraid that I would die?”

“Hmm, no, I thought you didn’t like this kind of thing.”

“Is that possible?”

“Hmmm… You didn’t join the war between Hwahong and Byulcho, right?”

Leeha slowly avoided Kijung’s gaze.

“Are you ready?”

“Let’s go. It’s not like I am playing around.”


Leeha shrugged his shoulder. What kind of image did his cousin show when he showed such confidence? Kijung suggested to Leeha.

“Hehe, okay. Then hyung, would you like to go with us?”

“What?”

“It doesn’t matter if you join a guild now right? It’s not like it’s dirty or anything.”

“Ah, no, it isn’t like that. It’s not like I am not joining Byulcho because of Ram Hwayeon, right? Of course…… I owe my life to Ram Hwajung- but it’s not like that either- I also……

Leeha was trying to think of an excuse, but he just kept blabbering. In addition, Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi laughed at the same time.

“Isn’t that the case, Leeha-kung.”

“Kiskis, that’s right. If you join, maybe she won’t leave you alone? If Ram Hwajung goes all the way- ugh, it’s scary. It was my first time going to an assassination that my left arm and right arm were frozen and stuck together. ”

Biyemi followed up Tale’s words and trembled.

They were definitely close friends after the Royal Palace.

“So, are you going to join or not? We’re going to the field camp now.”

Kijung grabbed his stomach and laughed before asking Leeha. Is he going to join them? In fact, it was an unnecessary question.

“Well. I won’t be applying for a party. Ah, Kijung should get some item drops.”

Byulcho guild’s party is like a gangster.

“Waa……. Nitai is too much.”

“It’s amazing.”

“Wow, guild master-nim, I’m nervous!”

Byulcho’s guild members were amazed by the spectacular view unfolding in front of them. There were so many people who had not yet found a party in the village. How many people have already partyed and prepared for war?

There was still a long way to the border, but the field camp, where the NPCs, and users mixed, seemed to reach the horizon.

“Now, everyone, walk in line! Be careful not to step on other users or NPCs next to you!”

Kijung led the Byulcho guild members as if he was leading kindergarden children.

Users who were maintaining their equipments or checked scrolls and buff potions glanced at Byulcho’s people.

‘Is that the NPCs’ tent? There’s so many.’

The NPC knights have a different pattern like the users’ guild mark. Just looking at the splendingly embroidered armor, and tents, Fibiel’s victory seemed natural.

After walking for a long time, a huge number of barracks that was located in the center of the camp caught their eyes. And even though they had only went to the vicinity of the barracks, a notification window appeared in front of Byulcho members.

『Battlefiled – Marching Plains – Platoon 54321』

Description: What do you think war is? It is taking the land. If you occupy an advantageous position, you will be able tot set a flag on the throne of an enemy country. Kill them all. And take everything away.

Content: Secure the high ground at the mark of the Marching Plains for 15 days(Current progress: 0%)

Reward: Contribution points according to the contribution main for securing the high ground.

Condition for Failure: Failing to secure high ground

Penalty for failure : Contribution points -100

– Do you accept??

“Get the map quickly and move! You are deployed as the 1st Platoon of the 2nd company, 3rd Battalion, 4th Regiment, 5th Division, the Marching Plains Field Corps! Come on! The 1st company of the 3rd battalion is already ready to charge!”

An NPC came out of the large tent and shouted at Leeha and the crowd.

‘Haha, that’s how they were classified. So this is platoon 54321. It’s good because it’s easy to memorize.’

Unlike the other Byulcho members, who only nodded, Leeha examined the contents of the quest.

In addition to Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi, there are a total of 30 elites from Byulcho. There were 31 people including Leeha, so it was a sufficient number to form a platoon.

“Leeha hyung, Tale hyung-”

“Accept it, Kijung-ah. We should bandwagon for now.”

“Alright, lets do this Kay.”

Kijung looked slightly excited about hearing of the ‘real war’. The moment Kijung clicked accept, after hearing Leeha and Tale’s words, the 31 people who formed a party were given a quest.

“Then what do we do now?”

“Shoud we go to the border first? The 1st company is already gone.”

“No, shouldn’t we divide the team first? Just like in the guild battle!”

“Everyone, please pay attention!”

Kijung arranged the guild members that were intoxicated with excitement. Ttok, what he had gathered were the elite of the elite. Everyone paid heed to the guild master’s call.

“We have already had a guild battle, that’s even with a bunch of bullies. If you’re doing the quest given in this war, it’s actually easier. Let’s calmly move.”

OHhhhh!

Hearing the guild members’ shouts, Kijung nodded.

-What should I do now, hyung?

-What, weren’t you confident?

-J-just. First of all, I am not that confident. The last war was led by Hyein-nim, no, Hyein and Sasuke. I know about raid and hunting, but war….

“Did you get the map?”

“Yes.”

-Bring it. Let’s see.

shwaak, the map unfolded. There were hills that squadron 54321 should occupy, and other dizzying signs were lined up.

“W-what is this?”

“Good.”

“Huh?”

Platoon 54321 consist of 31 members and was part of the army scattered in Fibiel. It was part of the cluster with no name and no characteristics. However, it was different from other platoons with 30-40 members that were grouped from different parties with 5 to 10 members.

“Very good. Can you see the boxes lined up in front of the hill? That’s the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd reginment, and the 1st and 2nd battalions belong to our regiment……they are already fighting here. It’s the members of the 1st company from our 3rd battalion who made their way through the forest by turning to the right. Do you see them trying to make a surprise attack by completely bypassing the front lines of the hill? I am a little disappointed by some of the marks, but this is a great map.”

“H…Hyung?”

“Kiskis, as expected. Ha Leeha-nim knows how to read a map too.”

More importantly, there were two people who could read the map.

“Biyemi-nim can read it too?”

“It’s not much different from the markings in the assassination orders given by the Midnight Circus. There were a lot of important characters and notes.”

“Good for you. There must be at least one person who can see from the front. Then first…… Let’s go look for the 1st company too.”

“Aren’t we supposed to go quickly, hyung?”

Kijung was rather uneasy at Leeha’s relaxed remarks. However, Leeha had his own thoughts.

“There is a hill over here. And this forest that appears to obscure the way to the hill……. Imagine that Minis had a map like this too. If it were you, would you leave this blank?”

“Oh? T-that- no?”

“That’s right. But if you look at the plan now, there’s no enemy unit mark on that side. It meas that it hasn’t caught our sight yet……. If that’s the case, I think it’s more of a bait. Of course, if our 1st company is stronger than Minis had expected, we will be able to breakthrough…”

Leeha looked at the operation diagram. Troops moving in the forest were visible in real time. The 1st, 2nd, 3rd, and 4th platoons of the 1st company rapidly ascended with a certain interval.

‘If you go to the end of the forest, go up to the 1’oclock direction on the hill. It’s definitely far from the existing wires. If you turn 7o’clock there and increase the speed, you can reach the hill. However……’

Minis would know that there was a weakness. Leeha looked at the mark of the 1st company, which was moving slowly, with anxious eyes.

“Give me a buff! Buff me!”

“Strength!”

“Enchant Armor!”

“Phew, run when I give the signal! They don’t even care about us at all! Cover!?”

“Ready! I can shoot up to 3 multiple shots! However, it’s so far away that I won’t be able to reach it.”

“You don’t have to hit! Just distract the mages somehow. By the time they notice us, we will already be close!”

Behind the grove of the trees, which was embarassing to even call a forest, the members of the 1st squadron, were holding their breath. It wasn’t a war with flying guns, but it was more than that in terms of bloodshed.

“Run, run!”

Waaaak-!

The dealer and tanks grabbed their shields and ran out of their cover. That’s all they could cover anyway. Now they know that the enemy will be able to see them too.

“I-I got it! The magician is over ther-!”

“Now! Shoot now!”

“Multiple shots!”

(To be continued…)
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As soon as the signal fell, the archer raised his bow. He aimed towards the sky like a high-angle cannon and cast a skill!

Shwaaaak-

Twelve arrows were fired toward the sky. He could use the skill 3 times in a row without cooldown, but after that, he wouldn’t be able to use the skill for a whole day.

In other words, this operation must be a success.

The 1st and 2nd platoons of the adjacent trench, who were also looking at the skill-linked charge, also matched their timing together.

“Let’s run as well! If we all run together, the enemy’s attacks will disperse!”

“Spirit of the running horse!”

Jurararang-

When the strings of a small harp-like instrument was plucked, the 2nd platoon was able to run faster. In large-scale battles, the ‘bard’s’ large-scale buffs were better than strong individual buffs.

In line with the attack, the 3rd and 4th platoons also ran out.

The 1st, 2nd, 3rd, and 4th platoons of the 3rd battalion of the 1st company went around their allies who were fighting at the vanguard and dug into the enemy’s gaps!

The surprise attack was sufficiently mobile with 100 people. If it was successful, it would have a big effect.

That was only if it actually did succeed.

The hill, which was currently being occupied by the Minis users, fell into panic.

“Cough, the arrows keep flashing, so the casting is-”

“Move away. This is an attack that doesn’t have any damage. Could it really reach us?”

Fwip, fwip, fwip.

A giant dressed in yellow walked out.


The archer made multiple shots, but it was already flying beyond the effective range. Even though the arrows weren’t even able to get to the middle of the hill, let alone the top.

They were not able to cast because they were scared of the arrows that covered the sky. Being afraid of such a thing meant that they no longer had any worth as battle mages. (ed: what do you want them to do? Die?)

“O…… one hundred and thirty people. It’s as planned. You guys should go and take a look at the situation.”

“But-”

“But what?”

“No, nothing.”

When the user pressed them, the battle mages flinched and stepped back.

As it was a detour and a surprise attack, there was a huge distance before the Fibiel forces could reach the high ground. Yellow particles entered his body.

“He’s casting again!”

“Stop! Archer, shoot! Whether it’s a multishot or-”

“The distance is just too great! And he knows that there would be no damage!”

They had to go up the hill.

Considering the time they spent detouring, as well as the penalty of not being able to log in, they did not have any leeway!

“Damn it, then-”

The yellow-clothed user finished casting in an instant.

“Rolling Stones.”

Rumble…—— Rrrummble一-…….

“Oh no…”

“That magic is crazy…”

The footsteps of the 1st company, which had just reached the hill and was about to go up, stopped. A rock suddenly formed on top of the hill. That magic ran down the hilld and accelerated, turning everyone into rats.


Besides, what if the number of rocks was not only one or two, but more than 80? The identity of the man was obvious.

“R-rock magician, shin! The rock magician outsider is up there!!!”

“Captain! We have to fall back-”

“Hey, how can we fall back from here? We won’t be able to use the detour again! Are you this much of a pushover? This isn’t a method that can be used twice-”

After taking a detour, they finally got to this point.

If this surprise attack failed, minis’ army will deploy troops to the detour.

Then, a surprise attack with 100 troops will no longer be possible!

It was too narrow for thousands of people even now! This meant that this would be the first and last surprise attack!

“We cannot retreat! We need to break through, stand up, we just need to somehow break a couple of rocks! And go up! If we can go up-”

Roll, rooll-!

The falling rocks gradually accelerated. How could a hill that was only 100m tall look so high?

“-if we could go up and cut the flag, we will win, so run! Charge! Charge!!!”

“Uwaaaak!”

They were provoked by the shouts before they could get overwhelmed by fear. The 2nd, 3rd, and 4th platoons ran following the 1st platoon leader.

***

“Wait. Everyone stop!”

“Huh? Why, hyung?”

“……The marks of the platoons of the 1st company disappeared.”

Leeha, who was running while looking at the map, stiffened.

“They disappeared?”


“No way…”

Kijung and Tale quickly approached Leeha.

“Does that mean the damage was so high that it was impossible for them to maintain platoon level? Kiskis, that means-”

“They are mostly dead.”

Biyemi and Leeha exchanged words. The 1st platoon of the 2nd company just entered the forest. They were on their way to meet the 1st company, but most of them were already killed off.

‘As expected, it was a trap afterall.’

It was meant to entice and swallow those who use clumsy attacks. Compared to Fibiel, minis appeared to be more organized.

‘There’s a military classification, but there’s no command system from the regimental commander or battalion commander. Was Minis able to see it? Judging from the quest situation, they must have a user over there.’

Was there anyone who has charisma and knowledge of operation plans?

Leeha thought for a moment, but no one came to mind. There were no rumors that a ranker had appeared yet. It could be someone among the unknown outsiders.

“Let’s go.”

“Okay. Byulcho members, quiet down. It is said that the 1st company members who were ahead of us were annihilated-”

Kijung gave instructions to the Byulcho guild members and ran again. Thirty-one people did not even breathe loudly while running through the forest.

The sun was still high in the middle of the sky, but the psychological pressure made it feel like it was midnight.

-Hyung, is that the line that appeared on the map over there?

A whisper came from Kijung after running for a long time.

Turning to the left, the dust and magic effects rising from far away stood out. And a small hill could be seen in front of them.

-Yes. Virtually all of the 5th division to which they belonged to will be in front of them. The 1st, 2nd, and 3rd regiments of the 5th division, and 1st and 2nd battalions of our 4th regiment…… Around 7,000 people in the military?

-Wow…… That’s amazing. Guild wars would look like their playing house.

Among the guild wars in Fibiel Kingdom, the war between Hwahong and Byulcho was one of the most popular among the many who participated in the battle at the same time.

However, in addition to the 888 Hwangryong members who participated as helpers, the total number of Hwahong, byeolcho, dragon Knights, seomgwang, and Czar was only around 2000. But here, there were 7000 people in one place.

That’s 7000 from Fibiel alone, and the number of Minis they are facing was also close to that number, and this kind of battle was taking place all over the Marching Plains.

-When I asked the other guild leaders, they said they were also creating a Minis invasion route at the foot of the northern Sentinel Mountains. The south side of the Witchmore Riverside as well.

-I see. That’s because they are not fools who will limit the invasion route to one. Still, it would be smaller than Marching Plains.

Their route condition will be different.

The fact that Marching Plains, the widest and flattest terrain in the continent, would be the largest battlefield was expected by Leeha.

‘To think that the war hasn’t even started for two hours yet. However, there are more than 5 divisions here alone. Considering the number of people who will continue to grow……

There were already 40,000 Fibiel users in the Marching Plains.

If Minis had a similar scale, it means that 80,000 users were already on their way to the battlefield.

And as time goes by, the number of users will gradually increase from there. After preparing for the war, everyone will gather here.

‘As Kijung said, it’s similar to the other invasion routes, but if you think it’s a bit small-’

How many people were involved in this battle? Leeha realized the popularity of Middle Earth.

So leaving the front line behind, unit 54321 continued to run. After running through the forest for a while, they felt movement in front of them.

“Haa- Haaa……. W-who-”

The small group of people drenched in blood was unable to see properly. They were just trying to find a safe place to log out.

“Fibiel?”

“Aah, friendly troops? Potion! If you have potion-”

They were remnants of the 1st company. The healers of Byulcho healed them according to Kijung’s instructions,.

“Thank you I didn’t know that the 2nd company is already formed. As expected, we should have waited and gone together…”

“What happened to the first company?”

The surviving personnel was barely able to open their mouths to answer Leeha.

After waiting until all 4 platoons of the 1st company were formed, the players who took the role of platoon leaders planned out a strategy, and when they tried to charge, the enemy forces awaiting in ambush used their magic.

“The Rock magician Shin is over there. There… there was a large number of mages.”

“Is he an outsider? Rock magician Shin?”

The member of the 1st company nodded his head at Kijung’s question. The Byulcho users were confused for a moment.

“Is he strong?”

“If it’s a one-on-one fight, he’s especially strong. Since the topographical map is on the high ground, if he makes the rock and it starts rolling down, its damage would be huge.”

“Kiskis, definitely……. It’s probably the worst match for me right now.”

Biyemi laughed. If it was magic that made walls out of rocks, boulders, and rolled them down, there was no room for any poison tomfoolery.

“I can destroy magic in the form of energy that has no substance, but…”

Tale clenched his teeth. He’d rather face aura bolt or fireball. It was difficult to stab a sword into a rock that was literally ‘falling down’ to squash you.

“Is the rock magician the only one to watch out for?”

“There are some mages, but without the rock magician, you’ll be fine. No, more than that- it was strange that the rock magician was there.”

In response to Leeha’s question, the troops nodded and shook again.

“What?”

“Like his nickname ‘Muscle-head’ Shin…. He is a guy that puts strength first. It is said that he is competing for the 1st and 2nd place in terms of ignorance in Middle Earth-”

“Was it by chance?”

“That’s right. If it was Shin’s personality, regardless of friends or foes, he would roll down rocks in crowded places, so why was he in the back? As if he knew there would be a surprise attack… Now that I think about it, it is strange.”

“Hmm.

Hearing his words, Leeha nodded his head.

As expected. there was someone else involved. Someone who knows how to make the most of the rock magician’s strengths.

‘Only the rock magician was there to block ambushing troops, and the other mages were in the front line. But to do that-’

You need to have charisma and skills to lead them. In addition, it meant that you must know the characteristics of each individual.

“Okay. Let’s go.”

“H hyung? Didn’t you just hear it? Rather than pierce through the rock magician, we would rather go to the front line-”

“They said we only need to be careful of the rock magician. Then what’s the problem? Let’s go, get up.”

As Leeha stood up, the surviving 1st company members also opened their mouths. However, no one could stop him.

“And why don’t you take a look at what’s behind you?”

“Huh?”

Kijung tilted his head. Biyemi smiled as he looked at Leeha’s blazing eyes.

“Kiskis, this will be fun. Besides, with Leeha-nim’s skills……. Our guild master might be able to break through surprisingly easily if he could hold on for a while.”

“You think so too, don’t you?”

Biyemi nodded in response to Leeha’s question. Only the guild master, whose name was actually called out, could not understand the situation.

“What do you mean, Biyemi-nim? Hyung? Do I have to hold on?”

Kijung cried.

“……Is that the plan?”

“Yes. If it’s Kijung, wouldn’t he be able to do it?”

Kijung looked at Leeha without closing his mouth. What’s the big deal? Kijung had an undescribable feeling and was at loss for words, but Byulcho’s guild members had a different feeling on their chest.

“As expected of Guild master-nim.”

“Phew, that’s great. Thank god.”

“Ah. It’s not something that can be done unless you’re courageous like our guild master-nim. There will never be a time when I will be as stupid as him.”

“A-all of you……. I’m still the guild master, right”

(To be continued…)
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Far from stopping him, Kijung felt restless as his guild members pushed him from behind.

“Kiskis, there’s no such thing in a war right now, Kay-nim is only one of the members of the 54321 platoon.”

“And it’s close, right? Run faster!.”

Biyemi and Leeha wedged in.

“It’s close! A bow won’t even reach the top! I think I can understand why the people from the first company were wiped out.”

From the forest to the bottom of the hill, it was around 50-60m.

From there, they had to climb up a 130m hill. The hill itself was not long because it was steep, but that was not comforting for Kijung.

No arrow will reach from the forest to the top, even for those who wielded the longbow. However, what if the range-dealer shot from above? It was enough to shoot someone running from below. (ed: Why are they even discussing this? Leeha’s a literal sniper.)

“A structure where arrows shot from above can reach and arrows shot from here cannot reach……

“Right. So, even in modern warfare using guns, occupation from the high grounds are important. Whether it’s near or long distance, the high ground has an unconditional advantage.”

Except for the defense against artillery, the advantages of the high ground apply from ancient to modern warfare.

“Let’s get ready.”

Leeha carefully took out Black Bass.

The top of the hill was open. There were hastily built barricades but there was no problem with visibility. Most importantly, it they wanted to cast magic, the enemy also needed to show themselves.

“Waa……. That musket looks great.”

“Is that really a musket?”

Looking at Leeha’s weapon, the Byulcho members were surprised. Since it was a rare job, no one noticed that Leeha’s item was different from your usual musket.

“Are we really going to do something like that? I’d rather do it with the members of the 1st company after at least 10 days……”


The surviving member of the 1st company had an anxious expression. They knew because he had already experienced it once.

Occupying the hill within 15 days would be close to impossible. He even though that the correct answer would be to give up the detour and do an all-out confrontation instead.

“We can’t wait for 10 days. Time is life.”

“But if you fail-”

“Fail?”

Click, Leeha inserted the magazine and pulled the bolt. He felt the hardness of the bullet.

“There’s no such thing in my dictionary.” (ed: Okay, mister cocky. Sometimes I feel embarrassed by Leeha)

And then he carefully laid down.

***

“Shin-nim!”

“What?”

“T-they’re here again!”

“Already?”

Shin, who received the emergency report went out of the tent. It’s been less than an hour since they dealt with the hundreds of previous enemy forces, but the follow-up team had already arrived.

‘He said they wouldn’t come more than once a day. They will only be able to come back 10 days later…’

Shin tilted his head.

It was even more questionable because ‘his’ predictions were never wrong. Maybe it wasn’t a full-fledge raid, perhaps they were just enemies passing by.

“T-there-……

“How many- huh?”

Shin looked down at the bottom of the hill and turned his head towards the two users who reported to him.


“These bastards! Did you call me just for that?”

“But you told us to tell you right away if anything happened-”

“This bastard! That’s when the enemy’s surprise attack begins! Why is there only one person?! Did you think he will come up here?

There was only one person coming out of the forest and moving towards the hill.

It would be too wasteful for Shin to use his magic.

Is he coming here? But he was coming up here! The man with a shining armor began to run up the hill from the bottom of the hill.

“Waaaaaaak-! I loooove iiit!”

“Is he crazy?”

“I’m a guild master, I’m still a guild masteeeer! Dash! High Guard!”

Even the watching users couldn’t help but scratch their head and laugh as they saw the skills used by the user running from below.

The enemy running at a fast speed had light emitting from his shield.

“Hoho, that’s a special attack. I think his level is pretty high ……. Okay, I will give it to you. This is good, I was getting bored anyway.”

Shin leaned forward in front of the barricade. Yellow grains gathered in his hands again.

“Shall we cast as well?”

“Don’t interfere. I will crush that cheeky bastard with petrification-”

Baaaaang—–!

“Uwa!”

“T-that surprised me. What?”

They suddenly heard a loud noise, and the magician’s body shook.

“Where did that come…….”


Shin-nim?”

The expression on the magician’s face distorted as he leaned his head out of the barricade.

He needed to clear his mind before asking if he was okay. Because Shin’s head, who was casting magic, was gone.

‘How did-’

That was it. The magician’s conciousness, who was looking at Shin’s headless torso, flew away in an instant.

He wasn’t able to hear the second explosion.

『You have earned 17 War Contributions.』

『You have earned 2 War Contributions.』

‘One more time.’

Click, he pulled the bolt, and aimed up the hill again. He killed the rock magician Shin and one of the mages under him. A third mage was seen rushing behind the barricade and lowering his stance.

Leeha was 200m away from the top of the hill in a straight line.

To others, it would be considered quite a distance, but to Leeha, it was close enough that the scope would get in his way more than anything.

Using the Eagle’s Eye skill, the enemy’s eyes were clearly visible through the cracks of the barricade.

The scope’s cap was closed.

Leeha was able to aim with the naked eye as long as it was less than 1,000m.

‘Fire.’

And since he was accurate. He pulled the trigger again. A third explosion was heard, and the ash in the cracks in the barricade completely disappeared.

『You have earned 1 War Contribution.』

“Phew…… Let’s go. Hurry up and take over the hill. We need to check what kind of kind of group is occupying behind the hill.”

After confirming that the enemy was no longer visible on the hill, Leeha put the Black Bass into its case. Then, he suddenly discovered that the surrounding scenery seemed to have stood still.

“Why is it like this? Let’s go quickly. Kijung- no, Kay is running all alone.”

Not to mention the normal Byulcho guild members, or the surviving 1st company members. Even Tale was surprised at the incredible rate of fire.

“Just what… did you do?”

“Hey, what did you think I did? Come on, let’s go. We don’t have time for this.”

“H-Ha Leeha-nim, your aiming speed is really fast. Kikis.”

“Hmm, well. It just so happened to turn out this way, haha.”

It wasn’t even precision aiming with a scope, but his 2,000 agility was really great.

Users who have no way of knowing such a fact had no other words other than ‘cheat key’ and ‘isn’t this a scam?’.

Kijung, who was still running towards the hill, turned around and shouted.

“C-come quickly! I don’t want to die alone!”

“This is…”

Tale forcibly pulled out his sword and went out of the forest.

Not only Shin, but also the two mages used for emergency report between Shin and the front line were killed. It meant that the rear was literally empty.

“-The tension for this war suddenly dropped.”

“Kis. I feel the same way.”

Thirty people from Byulcho headed toward the hill with leisurely steps as if they were taking a walk.

“Ah, did anyone get a contribution?”

“No.”

“Hmm, even if you have a party, you have to contribute to the battle to get some.”

“Eong-ah! Me! I got about 5 points.”

“Really? You can get points as a bait as well?”

“Can you at least call me a tanker…”

Automatic Distribution by Middle Earth’s system. It was not because of that reason that Leeha frowned upon hearing Kijung’s words.

‘I only got 20 points. Kijung got 5 points. In a surprise attack like this, I got rid of the enemy from behind, and it’s only 25 points in total?’

He opened quest window. What was the failure penalty for not capturing the hill within 15 days?

‘Contribution -100 points! Instead of getting points by taking quest for nothing-’

He might become a debtor if he didn’t contribute. Middle Earth’s unique brutal exchange rate shone even in this place.

“Let’s keep our guards up and be cautious.”

Kijung, who had almost reached the top, hardened his expression. Everyone who had laughed as if they were treating their guild master as a scapeggoat until just now became serious.

The mages that were with Shin were busy escaping.

As they crossed the improvised barricade, they saw Minis’ headquarters spread out on the high ground along the tent.

‘What should we do now? ‘Occupy’ means……. Do we just kill them all?’

They heard a voice in the nearby area.

Leeha carefully gave instructions to the platoon members.

“Most of it would have gone down the front line. All those that remained here are those who stop by for supply or treatment. It’s unlikely that there will be many, and if there are people, it means that they are still getting treated. They must also be seriously injured with near 0 HP or mana. Any injuries will be dealt with near the front line.”

With those words, everyone understood.

It meant that if they were careful, they could wipe them out easily.

“Shh.”

He hid behind the tent and lowered his posture.

The place where people’s voices could be heard was a tent with a red cross and flag at the top. It certainly looked like a relief station had been prepared for the front liners. 

‘Are you guys ready?’

Everyone nodded when Leeha opened his mouth. Leeha opened his bag.

‘Hyung, what is that?’

‘It’s a little stronger than before, so you shouldn’t approach recklessly.‘

It was not ‘Lesser’-class. What Leeha brought out was an 『Excellent improvised explosive』 made of Hell Anvil’s Dwarven gunpowder. (ed: hell yah, lets bomb a clinic)

Tsssss….

The short fuse caught fire. He measured the timing by looking at the length of the burning fuse.

‘Three, two, one-’

When the countdown for the firework display, which was unimaginable not only for the people below the hill, but also for the personnel in the Minis treatment station, was over. Leeha threw the explosives with all his might.

Baaaang-!

“Kwaak!”

“Uwaaah!!”

“What? What is happen-”

『You have earned 2 War Contributions..』

『You have earned 4 War Contributions..』

『You have earned 3 War Contributions..』

Trrring, trring. Even in this chaotic situation notification windows appeared. Leeha closed all the windows. Everyone understood what to do next.

“WIPE THEM ALL OUT!!!”

Biyemi, Tale, Kijung, and Byulcho’s mages and dealers casted their skills simultaneously.

“I-it’s Fibiel!! Fibiel’s army has come-”

“Fire stab-!”

Tale’s flaming sword pierced the enemy.

Puuk, puuk-

Minis’ knights suffered a fatal blow with a slumped posutre without even being able to take out their swords.

The mages tried to quickly raise their wands, but Biyemi Kaaaak-!! Spat out poison resins. When the sticky venom made of resin came into contact with their skin, mana was not able to accumulate in their bodies.

“Huh? Skill interference! Get rid of the status ailment-”

“Did we get caught too?!”

“Potion! Give me potion! Isn’t this a relief station?!”

(To be continued…)
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The mages and healers, who got their skill sealed, gathered. And a young man in shiny armor ran towards them, frightened.

“Uhaha, I won’t let you cast! Let’s gooooo, shield charging!”

Kijung raised his shield and rushed toward the mages and healers who were backing away. A human bowling bowl struck 10 pins in one shot!

Baang!

The ‘injured’ elites who were attacked by skills and explosions were not able to withstand the surprise attack. Even though their HP had barely recovered, their mana was still far from being recovered.

“Whisper quickly!!!”

“F-F-Flare! Light up the flares! Call the-”

“No way, no way.”

At that close range, Leeha did not even need to take out the Black Bass.

The Hummingbird-pistol and Needlegun-pistol each spat out white smoke. The bang sound they made was cute in comparison to the gunshot sound made by the Black Bass.

Of course, the Minis users, whose stomach’s were busy being pierced by a bullet, wouldn’t think so in the slightest.

Platoon 54321 succeeded in driving away a significant number of the Minis troops on the hill in just 10 minutes.

“Kijung, what’s the damage to our side?”

“Zero deaths, 1 minor injury. We barely did anything and we are still going to get benefits-”

『The Fibiel army is occupying the high ground 130.』

『Occupying progress 1.6%』

『You have to block this point for 1 hour.』

“Hmm? What is this?”


“Ara. Does hyung see it too?”

Not only Byulcho, but also the Minis army, who barely survived and ran, stared into the air. Leeha saw it as well.

“Based on their reaction…… does this mean that notification popped up for everyone else nearby as well?”

The long notification line below the high ground began to gradually become quiet. Because the Minis’ army, who had to stop the Fibiel’s army, began to turn around.

In other words, it meant that they had started climbing back again toward their original supply point where Leeha was now located.

“Oh……”

“As expected, it couldn’t be this easy.”

The war for the higher ground had only just begun.

“Push! Push, push!”

“Tankers, raise your shields! Make a line for the dealers!”

“Damn those Fibiel bastards!”

For users who fought with the combat assistance system turned on, PvP felt like a turn-based fighting. They inflicted and received damage while waiting for skill cooldowns. Healers understood the cries and situations of their party members, restored them at the right time, and applied buffs.

They used skills, however, unless the enemy died in one hit, it became a battle of MP and using combo skills at the right time.

Until someone made a mistake or runs out of stamina.

In other words, in order for a frontline to collapse, someone with overwhelming ability must participate. (ed: Or someone who know’s how to be a strategist.)

However, if it was a large-scale war with more than 10,000 people, the effect of that ‘someone’ would be quite large. Therefore, it was only natural that the front-lines of Fibiel-Minis army under the hill 130 to be stretched and maintained to a certain extent.

『Fibiel Army is occupying Hill 130.』

『Occupation Progress 1.6%』

『Retake the hill within 1 hour.』

“Hmm?”


“What?”

“Occupation?”

The frontline, which had been constantly making noises from the swords and shields, went into a moment of silence. Fibiel and Minis users looked into the air.

Because of the content of the notification window in front of them.

Of course, the lull only lasted for a few seconds.

A few quick-witted Minis users looked at the top of the hill. The treatment station was torn down, and they saw their allies running from the top of the hill to the bottom of the hill.

“T-the hill was captured! Those bastards bypassed us!”

“What happened to Shin? Didn’t he say that they would be able to block the tankers if the rock magician was around?! What was the initial operational order?”

“How would I know?! Take them all out first! All Minis soldiers, go up! Quickly!!”

Confusion arose from Minis’ frontlines. Looking at the notification pop-up window, Fibiel users, noticed their reactions as well.

“Who? Is it from the army?”

“T-that’s right! It’s even one from our division! Platoon 54321! Speaking of- oh, the 4th regiment 3rd battalion 2nd company……1st platoon?! T-there’s only one platoon in there!”

In the midst of this emergency, the Fibiel users opened their maps and checked the troops.

If medium to large-scale went up, the unit would have been four digits. If it’s 5 units, that meant that there was only one platoon!

Was it true that only one platoon of 30 to 40 people managed to get through Shin? Their literal ‘suicide attack’ succeeded?!

“There’s no time to be surprised! T-These Minis bastards shouldn’t have been allowed to climb! We have to hold them down!”

“We need to keep them busy for 1 hour and then it’s our victory! Push—!!! No, grab them!!!”

With Fibiel attacking and Minis defending below the hill until just recently, now the roles have been reversed. Now Minis is the one attacking and Fibiel is trying to hold them off.

And Leeha, Kijung, and the others on the hill were looking at the mess.

“T-they’re coming, they’re coming, guild master-nim!”


“How are your skills? Can you use your skills?

This feels completely different from normal guild battles-”

With just what they were seeing at the moment, there were 20,000 people including their allies. How many would it be if the ones who hadn’t turned back yet were included? No one could not be intimidated by this overwhelming sea of humans in front of them.

“Don’t doze off! Don’t turn on the combat assistance system just because you’re scared! Let’s do what we practiced, do everything that we practiced. If it gets too dangerous, everyone will get behind me and hide! I will stop 2,000 people.” (ed: Damn Kijung is strong.)

However, Kijung was indeed the guild master of Byulcho. Everyone had calmed down a bit from his words.

“Kiskis, it doesn’t matter if it’s Kay-nim, 2,000 is just too much.”

“That’s right. It is a strength as well as weakness of his.”

Of course, Biyemi and Tale, who were different from the regular guild members, laughed.

“Don’t laugh! Please prepare instead! Leeha hyung! Hyung-”

Baaaaaang—!

“-Kuaah!”

Kijung, who turned his head while looking through the guild members, stepped back in surprise. It was as if he heard gunshots next to his ear.

“Hey! Why did you suddenly turned around? You almost got hit!”

“You should at least tell us before shooting, hyung! I almost died…”

Leeha had already been prepared. The back of the hill that Leeha, Kijung and their party climbed was steep and short. The slope of the front of the hill was low and gradual, so the distance was rather long. It would take some time to go up. It was a fortune among misfortunes.

“Everyone get ready for the next attack! If we scatter, we’ll die, gather around and protect each other’s back! Our allies will attack them from behind but they won’t be able to stop them all”

That was certain. Although they were attacking from behind, those who were already behind the existing frontlines could climb up without any obstruction. And their number alone exceeded 1,000.

“Hyung? Are you okay with melee combat?”

“It’s something I want to avoid as much as possible-”

Tackak, talkak. Baaang-!

“-but let’s try our best.”

Another body fell. At this close range, he could fire with a musket, however, Leeha did not release the Black Bass’ transformation.

What he wanted to do is to show the horror of the bullets of the sniper rifle splitting humans. Only through fear could he slow down the enemies .

“Phew, okay. This time, it’s my turn.”

“What?”

“Last time, hyung saved me. This time, I’m going to-”

Click, Leeha pulled the bold again.

He didn’t even need to aim for the head. He just needed to aim and pull the trigger in order to shoot. As soon as the trigger was pulled, bang, Leeha and Kijung separated.

“——.”

“Huh? What? I couldn’t hear you!”

“No! Nothing! Do your best, hyung. We will do our own thing.”

After Kijung spoke, he gathered the members of Byulcho guild.

Thirty combatants protected each other in a small circle. The black muzzle protruded through the gaps and shot nonstop.

No matter how long the hill was, it was only 300m away.

Uwaaak-! Kill them! Kill those bastards!!

Cast magic first!

Okay, prepare to dash!

The Minis users were so close that Leeha could hear their yelling.

“I won’t just watch you finish casting.”

Baaang, the arm of the magician where red particles gathered was torn and flew. He died instantly without feeling any pain, so it was fortunate for him. They stopped and blocked like that for about 15 times.

Leeha inserted his fourth magazine.

“Give me my contribution points, you Fibiel bastards!!”

Finally, the Minis army was starting to get close.

『The Fibiel army is occupying the high ground 130.』

『Occupation progress 5%』

『You have to block this point for 57 minutes.』

He couldn’t count the number of Minis users coming their way. Enemy forces were lined up from one end to the other, narrowing the distance between them. Even if they were able to block this one wave, then what about the next? And the next one?

“Byulcho, prepare for an all-out battle! Team formation A!”

Only after about 3 minutes, did Minis’ first sword soar into the sky.

“The battle begins!”

Claaaang-!

Kijung raised his shield and blocking someones sword while raising his voice. All buffs and skills were ready. The bloody battle on the high ground began.

These were definitely the elites that Kijung had chosen.

Although they were frightened at the unimaginable number of enemy forces for a moment, they marched forward while performing what they had practiced.

Their dealer’s attacked the enemy’s combat assistance system decision’s, and the tanker’s intercepted the enemies’ attacks before it could hit them.

There was no disturbance in the formation with their skillful movements. Intoxicated with fighting spirit, resolve and fear, they naturally bridged the gap between offense and defense. The crashing sound of cold weapons spread over the high ground of 130, but it was so crowded that it was impossible to use range magic, so Leeha had time to analyze the situation.

“Critical Sh- Kaaa-！”

He broke their bow and the bullet pierced into the enemy’s shoulder.

The magician raised his wand to cast aura bolt, but the hand holding the wand was blown off.

The bullet penetrated the shoulder of the knight standing behind the magician, bringing a one-shot, two-kill effect.

Leeha literally ‘blocked’ all the sources of long-ranged attacks, even spoken swear words towards the Minis troops.

“T-that, they’re using magic or something! Who is hell is it! WHERE ARE THEY!!”

“Everytime I here a shot, someone dies!”

“Is is sleeping Kidd? Isn’t he a musketeer?”

“No! There! That guy on his knees on the floor is shooting with something-”

Baaaang-!

And Leeha was pretty clever. To the point where he dealt with those who were able to find his position.

The joint formation of Byulcho naturally showed its strength, ranged damage dealers were sealed off and the melee damage dealers were unable to get close.

Leeha and Byulcho were able to feel the virtuous cycle of a perfect combat unit.

“Why are you having a hard time with just 30 people! How many mages are there! Just cast your damn magic!!”

“You just keep saying that! But no one is able to cast their magic!”

How could they use magic when they die before they can finish casting. If they were not strong enough to come up from the bottom of the hill while moving and casting it immediately, no one would be able to cast in front of Leeha.

No matter what color of particles entered their body, Leeha’s bullet will follow as well.

“Then come behind me and cast! I will block it! ‘Strengthen and defend’!”

The knight silently casted. The large square tower shield was surrounded by blue columns. In terms of the shields strength, alone it was a figure that even exceeded Kijung’s.

“Ohh-! It’s Garem!”

“It’s the tanker Garem! All mages, get behind him! Dealers as well! Go, go!”

The mages rushed behind him.

“Just try me! Fuck, who is it? Is it Kidd or Luger?”

One shot! ‘Life Force’, ‘Protective Energy’!”

They were once again covered with blue and green light.

(To be continued…)
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With his will to protect everyone behind him, and not just one person, his strong courage was conveyed to the people behind him.

“That’s crazy, hyung! Don’t shoot over there! It would just be a waste of ammunition!”

“Kikiki, be careful Ha Leeha-nim. You might miss out on this war if you get killed by a magician or you get killed in a different place!”

Actually, Kijung and Biyemi also felt his spirit. There must be at least 10 spells that would come out of that shield.

“Tankers, save your skills! Mages prepare your magic!”

Understood!

“Healers, if you can use dispel, prepare it-”

“Kijung.”

“- hyung?”

“Is he stronger than you?”

“No, he’s weaker than me, but he’s pretty good at tanking! I’ve seen his raid videos a few times on YTube in the past, and he also tanked a drake’s breath-”

Baaaang—!

“-and he blocked it. That person did it alone.

“G-Guild master-nim! In front of you!”

A sharp sword flew towards Kijung, who was staring blankly at Garam. The Byulcho tank standing next to him managed to block it instead, but Kijung couldn’t come to his senses.

“Hyung.?”

“Okay then. Someone weaker than you couldn’t possibly stop me.”

Kijung looked at his cousin. The skill that Garam used was something Kijung knew.


To strengthen your defense, life force, and protection energy.

‘He increased his basic defense in proportion to his allies’ HP, and he also widened the range of his defense.’

Besides, he also received a buff that increased HP. If so, how much HP and Defense did Garam have now?

‘That……. Garam must be more than level 180.’

Kijung didn’t know, and that was the problem.

That there were might more than a 20 level difference between him andLeeha. As long as the title ‘Fearless’ was active, his already high attack power would increase even more.

“What are you standing still for? Quickly lead your team members!”

“Huh? Oh, uhh.”

Kijung raised his shield again and maintained the formation. Garam’s shield from afar caught his eyes.

In addition to the more than 3 layers of barriers in front of the shield, the tower shield that protected Garam’s body had a large hole.

What appeared in the gap in the hole was Garam’s body that had turned gray.

『Fibiel’s army is occupying High Ground 130.』

『Occupation progress 31.6%』

『You have to block this point for 41 minutes.』

******

“Mana- My mana is low! Please fight them by evading rather than tanking!”

“Are you really telling a tank to dodge?!”

Baaang-!

In the midst of this, the Byulcho tanker raised his shield to block in front of the healer. Even if he could avoid it, he should not avoid it, because the moment he dodged, the healer would be hit.

“Thrust Lance”


“Double Bash!”

“U-uwaaak-”

“Water Circulation!”

The timely sword strike with a powerful energy stopped the spinning spear spun that pierced like a drill, the tanker and healer were unharmed.

Tale was able to attack while counterattacking the lance like flowing water.

“Phew, are you okay?”

“Vice guild master-nim! T-thank you!”

“Physical training is essential. Keep your head down.”

“Yes!”

Tale went back to his position. It looked like he had the time to leisurely help, but he was also starting to get overwhelmed.

After ten more minutes, the remaining time would be 30 minutes. Around that time, byeolcho’s formation began to shake.

No matter how inconsistent they appeared, they were people who were at least level 100. It meant that they would have adapted to Middle Earth to some extent, but now they were facing over 1000 enemies.

Byulcho, which lasted 30 minutes with only 30 people, was unimaginably amazing.

‘However.”

Kijung looked around and clenched his teeth. Even the guild members that were only using a sword didn’t have any mana left, so they used their canes to deal physical damage.

‘I held on because we had Leeha hyung, but now, we have no choice but to give up. There’s no signs of our allies coming to save us!’

From the outskirts of the invisible forces, Fibiel forces must be fighting Minis. But what if they get annihilated before then? The occupation rate that lasted for 30 minutes might disappear.

‘If we fail this time- No, if we all die, will the quest be over? It is said that we would only be able to connect after 10 days, we could only fight for 5 days after that ……

There just wouldn’t be enough time. So what should I do?

“Kijung!”


“Huh! Hyung!”

Kijung’s spirit rose at Leeha’s call.

“Don’t think, just focus! Concentrate on getting through one minute, and then another, don’t look too far ahead! That is not I need you to do!”

Bang一!

One more shot!

He used delicate hand movements and even used the hummingbird-pistol and needlegun-pistol. Leeha didn’t have much room. However, that one sentence was enough to rouse Kijung’s spirit again.

“That’s right. It’s not the time. Even if I die, I have to endure first, right?”

“Who’s going to die?! How many minutes do we have left?”

“That- 29 minutes!”

Leeha loaded the two pistols at the same time.

He was quite used to reloading pistols, so he could fill both pistols with gunpowder within 10 seconds. Moreover, if that was the remaining time now…….

He looked around. It was certainly reasonable for Byulcho to endure more. However, he still had a trump card left.

‘I didn’t know it would be used as soon as the war started.’

He shot grapeshots toward the thigh of an approaching tanker. And an iron bullet blasted to his face as he staggered. After killing one enemy with only two pistols, Leeha exclaimed.

“Fibiel army!! If you are listening, get ready to run!!!”

“W-what are you talking about, hyung?”

“Save your skills! Get ready to run to the center in an instant.”

Kijung looked at Leeha. It was a call that could be considered nonsense. It’s not that their allies didn’t want to run, it was that they couldn’t. There was no road, so how could they run.

“Kijung.”

“Huh?”

“Hang in there. I’ll bring those guys.”

Leeha reloaded his pistols and stepped out of Byulcho’s protective formation.

“H hyung!!!”

And Kijung, who tried to catch Leeha, had no choice but to close his eyes tightly for a moment as red light flashed in front of him.

『Soul Link has been activated.』

『Soulmate will be summoned for 30 minutes.』

『Soulmate’s current level is 66.』

『75% of the user’s level will be added.』

『The current level of the strengthened soulmate is 187.』

It wasn’t just the Black Bass.

Since he told Lee Jiwon, he had been using the skill every cooldown. (ed: Finally we see the bear again, I really thought it was dead for good lol)

He finally reached ‘Intermediate Soul Link’. The Brown Bear, whose strength was increased from 50% to 75%, was enough to influence the course of the war.

“Let’s go, Koma! Break them all down!!”

Kuooong-!

Hwaruruk, Leeha rode the body of the blazing bear. It was the reappearance of the bear-riding shooter rumored to appear south of the capital, aelstock!

Leeha, who climbed on top of the Fire Bear Fire Bear, fired the Black Bass and pistols, and was like a reaper to Minis.

****

“Pierce it, pierce it!”

“The defense has gotten worse! As their range has narrowed, their thickened as well-”

“Still, we have to pierce and push somehow! There’s only one platoon! There should be only forty people at most! If we don’t go quickly, the special forces will be annihilated!”

The captain shouted, but it didn’t mean that he suddenly gained strength. The Minis army thoroughly sthrengthened their defenses.

“Damn it! If only we could deal with the those tankers, we would have found a way somehow!”

Where and what is Pei Wu doing! What about Shin Nara?

Even if there was only one of the two, their defenses no matter how strong would have been breached in an instant.

When users of similar level gathered together, only a meaningless battle would occur, but in this wide battlefield, it was impossible to suddenly summon Pei Wu or Shin Nara.

“Are they still holding up? There’s still 29 minutes left and they’re still alive!”

“That’s why we need to break through faster! With only 30 to 40 men, they were able to withstand the offensive of hundreds or maybe thousands of users! Can’t you imagine what they look like now?”

Even the word bloody would not be enough as a description. Being alive at the current situation should be considered a miracle.

Perhaps all the damage dealers have died, and only one healer lived by relying on a few final barriers and shield skills.

In other words, when the duration of those skills were over, it meant annihilation.

Were they able to understand the captain’s words?

Fibiel army’s body stiffened. It was also difficult to fight on the frontline. But how did it feel to be attacked by a large number of people when you only had a small number of people to defend.

“Fire blast!”

“Ice Spear!”

Bang, bang-!

Without sparing their mana, the mages flew into the air and bagan to rain down their magic.

“Fire Pillar- Aaaaahk!”

As much as they did not want to get attention, it was not possible because they had exposed themselves to attack. And with that, the heart of the flying magician was pierced. And crushed.

“Damn it, more, more,more, we need to push more! Their lives are as important as ours! If we can’t occupy the high ground this time, our quests will all fail!!”

Fibi- army!- -If- hear me–——!

“C-captain! Who do you think is shouting over there?”

“Who?”

“It sounds like someone is shouting over there!”

“They must be asking for help! Hurry up!”

Get –to run to the center—- —!

“No, what is he talking about? Run to the center? Run?”

“No, it’s not that, they’re asking for help! Hey, everyone, get together! I will use charging to push my way thro-”

Hwaaaaa—-….

Red light burst from far away and was seen by everyone. They even heard an unknown roaring sound.

And then they heard the sound graduallygetting closer.

-…… Kuooo–……. Kuong—Kuoong

— Kuoong-!

“W-what is that coming?”

“What? Whats happening?”

At the end of the ominous sound, what caught the eyes of the Fibiel army was a roaring blazing bear.

Kuooong-!

“Are you from the Fibiel army?! Follow me quickly! We can’t hold on for much longer!”

“……What is this……”

Leeha, who sat on top of Koma, shouted.

However, no one immediately understood the situation. Is he an ally, or an enemy? Why did the the ‘Field Boss’ from the level 12 plains suddenly pop out?

Leeha frowned for a moment and gave a name that anyone in Fibiel would know.

“Quick! The guild master of Byulcho is holding out, but not for much longer hurry!”

“Byulcho!”

“T-that’s right! The Byulcho guild is holding out! Somehow!”

“It’s Master Kay, right? That tanker?!”

“That’s right! Everone follow me! We will pierce through before the siege is over. Let’s go, Koma!”

At Leeha’s words, Koma growled and waved its arms. Minis, who had been hesitating, flew away like the autumn leaves, and the space once again became wider.

Surprise attack, sniping the enemie, rescuing the troops, breaking through the enemies encirclement and even calling for reinforcements.

Leeha’s versatile performance was only natural. (ed: Well he was a soldier, yea all korean men have to become a soldier at some point but I think Leeha did it professionally)

『Occupation progress 100%』

『The Fibiel army has occupied the High Ground 130.』

『The Field Battle- Marching Plains- Platoon 54321 quest has been completed.』

『War Contributions have been acquired.』

(To be continued…)
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“Then, this way-”

“Is it better to move the 6th and 7th division?”

A man with a slender mustache and the woman sitting in front of him moved their chess pieces. The only difference is that it was not a normal chess piece, but it rather represented the troops drawn on the Marchich Plains. (ed: The bad guys are so over the top with the chess pieces ( ͡► ▭ ͡◄).)

“Hmmm, that’s right.”

“Of course, what you’re thinking of right now is not a strong line of defense, now is it?”

The man’s eyes narrowed at the woman’s words.

“Do you really know what I’m thinking?”

“Rough~ly? So this division should be moved- and these troops should be in the frontlines…. I wonder if the picture the commander wants will come out.”

The woman moved the chess pieces once again while getting the gaze of the ‘commander’. The commander burst out laughing as he moved the pieces and wooden boards on the map.

“Uwahahaha, this is the one. Are there any other foxes beside you?”

“I’m flattered. I’m just guessing what the ‘fox of the meadow’ would be thinking. And wouldn’t it be better if there were two foxes?”

“Heu, yes, that’s right. We need two foxes in order to deal those that foolish Fibielians.”

The man was the Minis’ commander-in-chied, the fox of the meadow, ewin. And he had a long-standing rivalry with Fibiel’s Pillar, the commander-in-chief Granville.

‘……wasn’t that the setting?’

The woman covered her mouth with a wide-sleeved clothes and smiled softly. As Ewin, who was sitting opposite of the woman, laughed, a commotion broke outside their field camp.

“Commander! Commander! T-there’s an urgent report!”

“Urgent? What is it?”

The soldier who came into the tent looked at the woman for a brief moment, then saluted to Ewin and answered immediately.


“High Ground 130 has been over taken.”

“What!?”

Ewin, as well as the woman, frowned. However, it was only for a moment, so no one saw it.

“What happened? Didn’t you say it would be okay? I heard that you have deployed that rock magician or something? I believed those words and turned the troops around!”

“Really, commander-in-chief, there will always be variables during a war. You’re flustered about that.”

The woman looked at the soldier for a moment and asked the soldier.

“Is there anything known about who Fibiel sent, soldier-nim?”

“T-that, there’s none. We would have known if it was someone who had a high reputation…. Ah, I know the name of the group that succeeded in the surprise attack.”

“What?”

“They’re called ‘Byulcho’-”

“Byulcho! Huhu~, I see. Master Kay, Tale, and recently Biyemi…. If that’s the case, they should be able to break through high ground 130.”

The woman covered her sleeves again and smiled. Ewin tilted his head and asked her.

“Do you know something? Are those guys good? How did they break through?”

“I know about them. I am interested with the person who is affiliated with them.”

“Who is it?”

The commander tilted his head, but the woman walked back toward the map while listening.

“The one who broke through the rock magician, lead the special unit, and climbed the detour was Ha Leeha-”

The woman took a small piece of wood and moved it on the map.

“-The guild members of Byulcho protected him…… and Ha Leeha fired his guns. It must have taken sometime for the frontline to go up the hill- most importantly, Ha Leeha must have had a lot of people. Huhu~, I get it now.” (ed: Bloody hell, this women is annoying just shut up already.)

Ewin played with his mustache and asked, after hearing her mutter as if she was watching the scene.


“So? How?”

“This is better. The commander’s plans will be carried out even faster now.”

“Hmmm, I know what you mean. I guess it can’t be helped for a while.”

This time, the woman’s eyes widened a little. Although her remarks did not have any hint, was he able to guess the strategy from her words? As expected of the NPC with the highest level of AI

“Okay, don’t panic and move to the next operation. For high ground 130, first, evacuate and treat the wounded!”

“Understood sir!”

The NPC soldier left, and Ewin went back to his table and sat down.

“Now, Chiyou, what kind of troops should we move?”

“Don’t you think the commander knows better?”

As the 7th in the rankings, the dancer walked, and her perlvic line and kimono-like outfit shook enchantingly. Sitting next to each other, they moved the chess pieces on the complete map of the huge battlefield.

****

“Then our 1st, 2nd, and 3rd platoon will pursue them.”

“Please. We have suffered too much already……”

Users who were granted the regiment commander’s authority talked. Those were the people who have been granted the authority to look at the whole map in the camp or ‘order’ the members of the same regiment.

Needless to say, they were special in this war, but there were people in this camp that made even them wary.

“I’m sure you did. and……. I’m sure you have something to talk to them about. Well then, I will leave now.”

“See you at the next battlefield.”

It was, of course, platoon 54321 that made the regiment commanders cautious. The elites of Byulcho, including Leeha. Having a zero death toll in the midst of such an intense high ground batle, was proof of their survival skills and combat abilities.

‘Hmm, we are the same division, but there was no plans to coordinate with each division? Don’t we have a bunch of commanders? Is the authority given to users only until the regiment commander leaves? Well, it would be hard even if we had one.‘

Logging out was inevitable anyway. A tightly-knit command system can be rather poisonous in a game. It is probably better to give the users the appropriate privilege and let the NPCs set the direction of the bigger picture.


‘Like the NPCs who gave the high ground quest. No, maybe that NPC is the division commander. Something like a division captain’

When Leeha got a rough idea of the Middle Earth war, the conversation between regiment commanders ended. The 4th regiment commander walked towards Leeha’s unit and held out his hand to Kijung.

“You have worked very hard, master Kay-nim. I have heard of your fame, I didn’t expect you to pull off such a surprise attack…. Regardless of the number of people, it is clear that you are one of the strongest guilds in Fibiel.”

“Heym it’s nothing special. Are you Ron-nim, the master of the Rush Guild?”

“You know me?”

“I have seen your raids a few times before, when Hyein-nim was the guild master of Byulcho. And it wasn’t done with the power of Byulcho alone.”

Ron nodded his head as he listened to Kijung’s words. Kijung shyly shook hands with Ron.

“Then……?”

As Ron tilted his head, all the heads of the Byulcho guild members turned to one direction. From there was Leeha who was looking at the map placed on the table.

“It’s all thanks to him.”

“Excuse me, but who is he……?

“Ha Leeha, don’t you know about him?”

“Ha Leeha?”

“Hmm, the Cloud Mage! The one who destroyed Rising Sun in the past……

“Rising Sun! It’s been a while since I last heard that name. Are they still here?”

There were many large guilds in Fibiel.

There were guilds that are mostly based around small elites like Hwahong and Byulcho, though they only had more than a few hundred people, but they were still guilds with strong economic and combat power, but there were also guilds like Hwangryong, that have an overwhelming amount of memebers.

Rush is one of the large guilds that have a large number of American and Canadian users. It was a typical gaming guild whose main purpose was to hunt monsters, explore, adventure, and socialize, rather than accomplishing anything in the game.

Rush never collided with the Rising Sun, and its guild master did not have much interest in Leeha’s achievements.

“He was the one who killed Igor when Hwahong fought our guild.”

“Ah! 『Arcane Sniper』!”

“That’s right! He is the Arcane Sniper! That person is.”

Kijung was delighted and pointed at Leeha. Leeha was listening from a distance, but he couldn’t join in because of embarrassment.

‘Really, they will find out sooner or later. Kijung would be embarrassed, he would be embarrassed, and I am currently being embarrassed.’

They have been talking for a while as if he was a famous person, but now he could barely understand. The speaker, the listener, and the subject were all so embarrassing. At the same time, he realized that his fame was still quite low by Middle Earth standards.

Ron had difficulty speaking as he looked at Leeha and the Byulcho members.

“It’s a little hard to say this from the get go, but may I ask you to do something for us in the future?”

“Something-”

“Maybe because I arrived at the battlefield early, but I have the authority. If it’s not to rude to the Arcane Sniper, would you please consider?”

Ron called Leeha and took something out of his bag. When he clicked something like a crystal ball, a huge holographic map appeared in the air.

“Waa……. Is this the complete map of the Marching Plains?”

“Yes. You probably received a battlefield map because you’re only a platoon, but regiment commanders have maps like this.”

Everything, from Fibiel to Minis, was shown. Of course, the information of the Fibiel’s army was incredibly accurate, while the information about the enemy forces needed to be confirmed.

Leeha took a quick look at the map floating in the air.

“It was a successful invasion from our side, so I thought we took over a lot, but…”

“That’s right. The resistance was stronger than we expected. We have not yet crossed half of the Marching Plains.”

He could see the other divisions.

They were struggling, but their forces were similar to the enemy. In other words, it would be difficult to penetrate everywhere like we did with the high ground 130 before. As Ron swung his hand across the hologram, red arrows appeared.

“This is the quest I received. Reach the end of Marching Plains within 60 days. If you watched the footage of todays battle, you know that-”

“It would be difficult to get a couple of the high grounds within 60 days. There are more than 10 mountains to climb.”

Leeha succinctly said. It might have offended Ron, but he just took it on.

“It’s not wrong, so……. Hmm, how did you do it?.”

Ron hesitated for a moment and stopped moving. Ttrrring a new notification window appeared in front of the members of platoon 54321.

『Field battle – March Plains – Platoon 54321 – Special Operation-1』

Description: I beg you.

Content: Support for securing the marked points within 5 days

Reward: War Contribution +150

Condition for Failure: Fail to secure the marked points

Penalty for failure: War Contribution -200

– Would you like to accept??

“I have to ask you guys for a favor.”

They were not able to react quickly at the newly created quest because of his calm and gentle tone.

“No way!”

Kijung shouted after about 5 seconds.

“W-what is this, ron-nim? Are you going to tell us to do that crazy stunt again? High ground 130 had a decent detour, escape route, and they weren’t vigilant against us, so we were okay! But isn’t it different this time? If the information ever gets leaked, we would have no way to retreat!”

To stop an entire army with only 30 people.

If you look at the number next to the quest or the route to be taken by the 4th regiment floating on the map now, there were at least 10 such marks.

I other words, it was natural to speculate that no matter how well they did this time, they would be asked to do more than 10 quests in the future.

“That’s right, ron-nim. My name is Tale, the vice guild master of Byulcho. I know that Ron-nim is a regiment commander, but it’s not appropriate to send us to that kind of situation.”

“I don’t know how to say this, but your team has a good track record. I am sorry as well.” (ed: They’ve only done this once, not much of a record now is it.)

Ron shook his head.

Seeing that, Biyemi crossed his arms.

“Kiskis, this, it is said that you don’t get too far in the military. It’s a big deal.”

“Is there such a saying in Vietnam?”

Someone from Byulcho asked Biyemi, but he did not answer.

“What happens if we refused?”

“If you refuse-”

“……Can you adjust the figures or ratios?”

Just as Ron was about to answer Kijung, Leeha stepped forward.

“Hyung?”

“What do you mean by adjustment?”

“Additional contribution for success, and deduction for failure.”

“W-well yeah, it’s possible.”

When everyone thought it was not possible, everyone looked at the reward and penalty for failure that Leeha was touching.

‘Is it because it is a quest that users can create? It’s different. It’s a little different than the usual.’

The reward is really generous this time! Furthermore, considering that the ratio for failure was normally 1:2, this time, it’s a wopping 1.5:2 If they were successful, they can get a lot more.

‘In the fierce battle at the high ground 130, the contribution I got was only 400 points. Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi should be around 150 to 200 each. And the rest of Byulcho is around 100.’

I should also consider the cooldown of Soul Link and Force Barrier. I only gained 400 points even though I used skills that could only be used once a day. But what about this.

If we succeed, we could get 150 contribution points. In addition, what about the distribution of additional individual contributions points based on performance?

“How much would it be if you raised it to the maximum?”

“If you modify it to the maximum-”

(To be continued…)
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Reward: War contributions based on performance in securing the marked points, war contribution +300

Condition for failure: Failure to secure marked points

Penalty for failure: War contribution -400

“-if its like this……. J-just in case-”

“Ron-nim, you said that we could do it, didn’t you?”

“Yes. However, there’s a rumor that it wouldn’t end in just zero. There are rumors that there would be hidden penalty before and after it falls to the negative……

It is said that if a person with 300 contribution points get deducted 400 points, it would become -100.

And there could be a punishment for a person with negative points after the war is over.

“Crazy…”

“Then should we not do it?”

“Even if we stay still, we have already earned 100 points.”

Byulcho members murmured, but Leeha and Biyemi nodded as if it was only natural. They were able to predict it to some extent because they had already cleared a special quest once before.

‘As expected.’

It has to be at least this level to be Middle Earth. And the rewards of quests that comes with the difficulty was always so sweet.

“Hyung? We shouldn’t-”

“Trust me, Kijung. And the same for all of you.”

Leeha opened his mouth after examining the contribution points, byeolcho, and the complete map.

“I will hard carry you guys. You will be riding a bus. All you need to take care of the dropped items.”


Ron, who created the quest, had an anxious expression, but Kijung’s expression gradually changed to a more stable one after hearing what Leeha said.

“Kiskis, halihali-nim, if we follow you, you won’t bring us any harm.”

“Our names will ring all over Minis.”

Biyemi and Tale supported Leeha. Still, the anxious face of the Byulcho guild members did not change.

“Ah! Ron-nim, can we change the name of our unit as well?”

“If you want- But to avoid confusion with other units you need to keep the classifier-”

“Okay, the name special forces only works when we really are the special forces.”

“I understand. What name do you want to change to?”

As Leeha leaned forward. Leeha felt like changing it to ‘Ha Leeha’s platoon’, but he knew he shouldn’t. He would like to at least hide his name. Then there was only one answer. (ed: Yea you shouldn’t! That name is awful.)

“Byulcho’s Special Forces.”

The eyes of the Byulcho guild members widened at Leeha’s words. Tale and Biyemi laughed out loud.

“As long as it’s like this…”

“We couldn’t make this team without Byulcho, right? Kiskis.”

“……You guys.”

Kijung’s smile was overflowing with warmth and he stepped toward his guild members.

“Let’s do it.”

In the end, everyone pressed the accept button. It was the moment where the platoon formerly known as platoon 54321, became Byulcho’s Special Forces.

At this moment, neither Ron nor Kijung nor Tale, nor Biyemi could’ve known. What kind of prestige the ‘Byulcho Special Force’ would play in the Marching Plains battlefield.

There was only Leeha who was expecting it.

“Let’s go.”


Leeha firmly held Black Bass’ case. As long as he had 30 ‘sniper escorts’, he had nothing to be afraid of.

Thwiiip,

An arrow filled with a fierce momentum ripped through the air.

However, it did not reach its target. It just hit the turquoise shield that protected him. The person inside the shield frowned.

“Support? Is there really no support?”

“There’s none! The regimental commander went directly to General Granville, but the response wasn’t good!”

“Damn it! How can we break through with only users, they should at least give us two knights!”

He tried to spit out a complaint, but it was to no use. It was impossible to have only one battalion to lead.

Besides, as the days go by, the users’ fatigue would overlap. It was the same for the Minis’ side as well, but anyway, as long as the power on both sides are the same, it would be difficult to move forward.

Just 50 meters away from the frowning battalion commander, was everyone who was risking their lives, and swinging swords, spears, and shields. People mixed with people, and there was a lot of swearing and shouting. But it was not scary. It was better if there was a curse or shout.

What the users were actually afraid of was the casting of skills popping out in between because it would be able to take their lives.

“Kuwaaak, heal! Heal!”

“I have no more health! No more!”

“Hold on a little longer, Guardian Saint’s Sword!”

Waah, Fibiel! Fibiel!

Bang, a semi-transparent giant sword pierced in the middle of the battlefield. The green light it emitted had a wide-area healing effect, but in this battlefield, it was not enough.

“Guardian Saint’s Sword!”

Bang, because there were also healers in the Minis’ army.

Waaah一! Minis! Minis!

Minis’ morale went up in an instant. As the army received the wide-area healing effect, they raised their sword again.


“When will this fucking exhausting war end!!”

Fibiel’s army grew weary.

They had no troops. If they had a similar momentum, the defensive side is bound to have an advantage. It would be much easier to defend the high ground. Of course, minis’ army knew that too.

“Wipe out all of the Fibiel! Each of the 20 tanks in the 2nd and 3rd companies fall back for a while and then-”

There was someone in Minis who commanded the army and stood 50m from the frontline. He must have been the guild master of a well known guild in Minis, or someone with high fame.

Middle Earth did not grant users the authority of a company commander, battalion commander, or regiment commander simply just by coming early.

“And after he’s taken out? What should we do after taking them out, Paul-nim?”

It was then that Paul’s voice, who was giving commands, got cut off. Take out the tanks and move out again? Or should they make a separate wing?

“Paul-nim! Paul-nim?!”

However, they did not receive any command from Paul.

It was someone’s scream that replaced the noise in the frontline.

“P-p-paul-nim is dead!!!”

“What?!”

“Paul-nim is-”

The shouter’s armor was crushed. They did not even wonder what happened to his body. It was already turning gray, it meant that he was already dead.

“What happened! Who- Who is it?!”

All they could hear was the sound of weapons crashing. Skill? Assassination? However, they still had enemies in front of them.

Fibiel’s army was just as bewildered. However, they cherished the new hope that suddenly appeared.

“……Surely…”

With an excited expression, he lifted his head and looked around. Another Minis soldier fell. After a while, another person collapsed nearby.

Their hopes were firmly rooted as the commanders who gave orders and managed the war situation started to fall one by one.

When hope was certain, someone from Fibiel raised their voice.

“Wahhh!!! They’re here!!!!”

“What? Who?”

“It’s them, they’re here! The special forces have arrived! Byulcho’s Special Forces are here!!”

“Waaaah?! Finally, finally! They have finally come to our frontline! It’s Byulcho’s Speicial forces! Byulcho Special Forces have arrived!”

Smile bloomed on all the faces of the frontline dealers and tankers. The battalion commanders behind them were no different.

“E-everyon, get up! This is the time! As long as the Byulcho Special Forces hsve arrived, we’re done with this stupid high ground! Occupy the high ground as soon as there’s a chance!”

“Sir, Yes-Sir!”

Everyone was united and their morale was boosted.

In proportion to Fibiel’s rising morale, the faces of the Minis’s soldiers turned sour.

For Fibiel, the special forces were akin to angels, however, for Minis, they were no better than the devil himself, and it was impossible to know where and how the enemy would be killed. Murmurs were being circulated that there was only one way to know whether they would or not.

When the Minis’ commander’s head exploded out of nowhere.

In the end, it meant that Minis’ army would know how he died when he got logged out.

“T-they are! We have to destroy the Byulcho Special Forces too!”

“Where! Where should we escape?! How are we even going to runaway from this situation?!”

“Even if we use a scroll-”

“Is there any chance that your contribution will get negative? We should live and die here-”

『Achievement: Living Ghost(B-)』 Congratulations! You have killed at least 1 soldier from the enemy country. Enemy forces are beginning to recognize your identity, which has only been shrouded in rumors, and your allies morale has been raised just by hearing your name. Will you be able to spread your fame to the entire enemy country beyond this simple campaign?

Reward: 26 stat points (recovered when killed by enemy user)

(This achievement does not have a hall of fame.)

Pook, the head of the Minis soldier who was loudly shouting exploded like a watermelon. The overwhelming visual that provoked nausea lowered Minis army’s morale even more. (ed: I’m pretty sure if this was a real game they would get sued for causing trauma or something lol)

The battle on high ground 274, which had been staggering for 13 days, ended in 41 minutes after the Byulcho Special Forces was dispatched.

***

“Pheew.”

Leeha took his eyes off his scope. He had already killed over a hundred of those Minis soldiers.

“Are you done, hyung?”

“Yeah. Everyone was able to climb. If they could hold on like that for an hour, they would be able to occupy it. Let’s go to the next place right away.”

Hearing Leeha’s answer, Kijung widened his eyes and looked towards the distant hill. Kijung naturally was not able to see it.

“Really…… were you able to see it, Leeha-kun?”

“Yes. Of course.”

“Kiskis, you’re a monster. I can only see a little- nevermind I can’t see much…”

Tale stuck his tongue out, and Biyemi, the real monster, shook his head.

They were approximately 750m away from high ground 274. The noise of war, mixed with the gunshot fired at about 800m away could not be heard by the Minis’ army.

In other words, byeolcho Special Force’s location was not currently exposed.

“Monster. Fortunately, this was only possible because this was a flat area and there were no obstacles. No matter how good of a sniper you are, if your vision is obscured, it’s over.”

“That’s right. That’s right, Ha Leeha-nim.

Awesome!”

One of Byulcho’s tanker nodded and agreed. The expression on his face while looking at Leeha was almost to the point of looking like a devoted believer.

“Ha Leeha-nim, are you in good shape? Can I give you a potion?”

“You must be short on stamina? I have some vitality potions, would you like to drink them?”

“Oh, no…… I still have a lot of stamina left.”

Byulcho guild members rushed in and pulled out some potions from their bags.

After seeing Leeha’s mysterious skills, this scene was always created.

 “Leeha hyung, aren’t you gonna take it? If not, then give it to me! I seem to have lost a lot of my health from using skills to protect Leeha hyung-”

“Guild master-nim has his own supply. The coldness from from his guild members struck Kijung like lightning.

“Hyung……. I still have a long way to go…”

A full month has passed since the Byulcho Special Forces was born. How many times has the sniper Leeha shined during that time?.

The frontline has stretched and was used to occupy the high ground from the day the Byulcho Special Forces were formed

‘It’s really, a real hard carry!’

‘The contribution they got while protecting Ha Leeha for days exceeded 3000.’ The topic who has contributed the most at present was the most interesting topic among them.

“There was no one who could keep up with hyung’s contribution. You are now the first hyung-nim-”

Leeha waved his hands at Kijung’s words. As expected of a humble person. When the guild members thought the Byulcho guild leader had finished his praise, his words once again continued.

“-Well, I had been the first since the first day. That’s refreshing.”

“……Ahh, my eyes are sore . If it wasn’t for hyung…

That was a pretty good answer, but the thought’s of Byulcho guild did not change at all. As expected, Ha Leeha is the best sniper ever! To the extent that something must have changed. Their trust on Leeha was limitless. (ed: But he’s the only sniper in the game…)

-Say goodbye, byeolcho Special Forces. Please quickly come to the Marching Plains now. Again?

–

“Hmm?”

“Oh?”

It was at this time that Ron’s voice was heard by the others who were joking around and giggling.

(To be continued…)
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“If it’s the Plains headquarters…… It’s where the Commander-in-Chief Granville is located.”

“Kiskis, what else is he gonna try to make us do?”

Tale and Biyemi said to Kijung and Leeha knew as well.

The place where their quest was first assigned was named the Plains headquarters, and now, Granville, the Commander-in-Chief, and land warfare commander, was going to give direct orders.

“Will he give us something like a special reward? There are cases like that in the military, right hyung?.”

“Don’t expect too much, Kijung-ah. As Biyemi-nim said. If they could make you do more, then they will. In any case, it would be good for us, but…… if I was the commander-in-chief, I would give a different quest. What about the reward? It is likely to be much greater than the simple contribution-acquiring operation like now.

Leeha smacked his lips and started cleaning up. They left only after removing any and all traces of their existence.

“Then, let’s go! Ah, our scrolls-”

“Here!”

“I have mine!”

“Use this, use this, Leeha-nim, please!”

Waah! One at a time, one at a time!”

He realized once again that even when he’s popular, it would still be a problem.

“There are so many people.”

“Certainly……. Besides, the security is ironclad.”

There were so many soldiers near the Plains headquarters that Byulcho members were surprised. Most of their troops have gone out to the frontline, but it was still crowded.

‘If it’s this number, it would be difficult for Petyr to even try.’

Contrary to the Byulcho members, Leeha was relieved of his worries. He thought that members of Midnight Circus might sneak in somewhere and try to assassinate Granville, but with this kind of security, it would be fine.


“Master Kay-nim, and the Arcane Bullet Shooter, Ha Leeha-nim!”

Ron, who had already met them, embraced Kijung and Leeha at the same time. Knowing why he was doing it, they didn’t hate the intense embrace of the middle-aged man.

‘The more points we get, the more Ron’s, who gave the quest to the Byulcho Special Forces, stock prices would go up. Thanks to Leeha, the relationship between Byulcho, one of the strongest guilds in Korea, and Rush, one of the largest guilds in the U. S. was also getting stronger.

“Everything okay?”

“What’s the big deal? Every time Byulcho Special Force is active, the frontline moves forward. I haven’t even seen a hair from the Minis’ side lately.”

Ron responded with a smile to Leeha’s greeting.

“Then why did you call today-”

“Ah, Granville said he had something to say. Would you like to come in?”

According to position, ron was a regiment commander, and Kijung and Leeha’s party were only one platoon, but there was no vertical treatment. Rather, it was closer to Ron, who was the regiment commander, serving the platoon members with great care.

“Commander-in-Chief Granville. The Byulcho Special Forces have arrived.”

“Come in.”

When he finished speaking, the door to the tent opened. The first thing that caught their attention was a gigantic hologram of a telescope, as they had seen in Ron’s tent before.

And one old NPC sitting at the top. Users or NPCs above the rank of division and regiment commanders were lined up left and right.

And another person was with them

“Huh? Why are you here-”

“If you’re going to be so active, why didn’t you put our names together?

The red-haired woman, Ram Hwayeon, cut off Leeha’s words. (ed: Dammit she’s back.)

“Did she call hyung?”

“Would I have been surprised if that had been the case?”

“T-that’s right. Then-”


Kijung was surprised as well. He hadn’t seen her since the royal palace quest, so why was she here?

‘No, since Hwahong was also one of Fibiel’s guild they would naturally be interested in the war too, but……

It’s not “Ram Hwajung”, but Ram Hwayeon?

Also, with NPCs at the regiment and division commander level?

It was only natural that Kijung would be confused. For half a month after the start of the war in Middle Earth, Ram Hwayeon and Jachung had to fight their own completely different battles.

Their war was about negotiating on providing supplies!

Ram Hwayeon knew that it wouldn’t do much if she negotiated on providing supplies when the war had just begun.

‘You’ll appreciate the food more when you’re hungry.’

However, in a situation where she didn’t know what was happening in the war, Ram Hwayeon couldn’t just watch. Through the intimacy with the royal family and Shin Nara, which was forged through the royal palace quest, she looked for opportunities in various fields .

At that time she did not know what was happening with Leeha and Kijung, but they had intelligence agents that were stationed everywhere, not only on Marching Plains, but also on the Dike Coast, where Kraven’s Navy was dispatched. And finally, the call came. To the place where the biggest battle was happening, the Marching Plains.

In a way, it was only natural for Ram Hwayeon to come here at this time.

“You know each other?”

“Yes, commander-in-chief.”

“Good. I will now inform you about the importance of this operation.”

Granville nodded. The old knight’s deep and heavy voice entered Leeha’s ears.

‘It’s a mission. As expected, they have gathered all of us here……

It might be a new mission. Just as he was trying to figure out what kind of mission it would be by looking at the map, Granville stood up.

“Who is the captain for the Byulcho Special Force? Come forward.”

At Granville’s words, byeolcho Special force’s members went to two places. From their perspective, there were only two candidates who could be the captain.

“Oh, t-that, hyung? It’s my hyung.”


“Huh? Kijung, you have to do it. It’s the special force named ‘Byulcho’. The guild master of Byulcho must go.”

“No! It’s scary.”

“Hey you idiot! What are you so afraid of? Get out there!”

And the two made pointed at each other.

‘Anyway, those two……. They’re still playing around in this situation.’

Ram Hwayeon’s gaze was fixed at the two, specially on Leeha.

She came here and heard about Leeha’s activities. She reached out to the royal palace and as she was running around, she heard some keyword about the “New Continent”.

While she was obsessed with making money, Ram Hwayeon was somewhat in awe when she heard the news about Leeha, who was active on the battlefield, and somewhat relieved to see his unchanging personality.

‘He’s a person who doesn’t change…… That’s why he is interesting.’

Was he just interesting? The corner of Ram Hwayeon’s lips rose as she looked at Leeha.

“No, I think it’s right for hyung to go this time. If all of the members are sent outside, and only the captain is left, then what should I do if I misunderstand the mission?”

“That…… that makes sense. Cough, I understand.”

Leeha did not want to make a name for himself, but Kijung had a more logical reason.

In the end, Leeha sighed and walked in front of Granville.

“Captain of the Byulcho Special force, Ha Leeha, reporting for duty. Commander-in-chief Granville sir!”

“I know what you did.”

“Yes?”

Granville’s eyes were bitter. Although Granville aura seemed less imposing when he was before the king, but his aura at the moment felt stronger than the Fibiel’s king.

Besides, his attittude felt like he was somewhat scolding him….

“It’s because of you.”

“What…… are you talking about sir?”

He held out his hand. When Leeha’s hand was grabbed, he felt a gripping force.

“I expected the formation of the frontline of Marching Plains would be on hold for at least 90 days…….

Because of you, it was shortened to less than 30 days. Thanks to you, our military had to rework all of the strategies that we had struggled to come up with, so how can we not blame you?” (ed: WOT. What do you mean its his fault for doing a good job?)

Granville released Leeha’s hand.

His angry expression suddenly softened. Leeha also noticed Granville’s purpose.

“Thank you. It is thanks to you.”

“You praise me too much. I just did my duty as a soldier sir.”

“Hmmm.”

Leeha’s answer was in line with the what most conservative soldier NPC wanted. Granville went back to his seat, sat down, and shouted.

“Military advisor!”

“Yes!”

“Brief the Byulcho Special force with our battle progress.”

“Yes!”

Another NPC suddenly got up and approached Leeha. The chess pieces began to move on the huge map floating as hologram.

“These are the changes in the frontline due to the performance of the Byulcho Special force. The occupation of high grounds, which was initially expected to take 15 days, was significanty shortened, and our army was able to push forward at once. As the commander-in-chief said, we greatly appreciate all of you hard work.”

Leeha nodded his head lightly at the NPC’s words and tried to focus on the map, but it still touched his heart.

‘No, did they expect it to take more than 15 days for each high ground?’ (ed: Did they really think that they could get all of the high grounds?)

The occupation period granted for each hill was 15 days. Did they give the quest while considering the period of occupation after experiencing one failure at the start?

‘Are they trying to make the users have a contribution debt? Come to think of it, the deadline for Ron to reach the end of the Marching Plains was 60 days, right? But Granville just said that it would take 90 days. Anyway, the people from Middle Earth…” Leeha shook his head lightly and concentrated on the map again.

There were sharp protruding parts in various places in the frontline, from the upper left to the lower left.

Of course, the protruding part was the arrow extending to the 7 o’clock direction, and the divisions advancing by occupying the high ground was based on Leeha’s activities.

“Those stupid Minis brutes, but unfortunately Ewin is an exception. He’s living up to his name as a scheming fox.”

As they broke through the frontlines, they had an operation that would have encircled and annihilate the stretched out Minis army, but as seen on the map, they have already started to retreat.

‘The frontline hadn’t been complete lost yet, but they are already retreating. Minis’ commander-in-chief’s judgement is too fast.’

Ewin was also known as the fox of the prairie.

It was thought that the reason Fibiel’s army was having a hard time pushing forward despite their larger number’s compared to Minis was due to Ewin’s clever tactics.

‘Is he the one who dispatched the rock magician? No, the commander-in-chief wouldn’t give direct instructions to even a single soldier-”

hmmm……

They need to find out the enemy’s intentions by reading the movement of the enemy’s army.

In particular, since this kind of map could not be seen from Leeha’s position, he tried to dig up as much information as he could.

“However, the fox probably didn’t know that they are cutting off their own flesh. Most importantly, because he couldn’t predict your outstanding performance.”

The NPC praised Leeha and continued the briefing.

“So, our army is going to break through the Marching Plains withing 30 days like this and immediately enter into a siege warfare.”

“Siege warfare?”

The map was zooming out revealing Minis’ entire field. Fibiel’s army, spread across Marching Plains, was concentrated in one point. It was pointed toward Minis’ castle.

“A break point”

“There’s no need to spread the frontline wide. After breaking through the Marching Plains, we can concentrate our forces and go straight to the capital of Minis. We have 7 cities or castles to occupy until then.”

Most of Fibiel was mountainous, whereas most of Minis was flat land.

Normally, they would have to invade gradually while maintaining a wide frontline, but with Fibiel’s current circumstances, that wouldn’t have to be the case. Rather, they could directly target the capital city by only capturing the necessary cities in the shortest distance.

‘It is certainly the fastest way to end the war. If they captured the capital, it was practically the end-’

However, was it possible?

Did they believe in Leeha’s abilities to the extent that they would revise all their plans for battle going forward?

‘Going to the capital through the shortest route, and minimizing combat at all costs. Anyway, the distance is still far. Besides, since we will only break through at one point, there could only be one supply line between the base and the frontline. If the supply line is cut, wouldn’t it will cause enormous damages to the frontline?!’

As soon as he got to that point, Leeha realized.

When he lifted his head and looked at Ram Hwayeon, she nodded as if she had read Leeha’s thoughts.

Hwahong came here to take charge of the supply line.

“Do you know what that means?”

“I…… know.”

All divisions would gather on Marching Plains and start the siege warfare. Before Minis could notice Fibiel’s operation while retreating, Fibiel will quickly capture cities on their way to the capital! However, what if they tried to cut off their line of supply that Hwahong is protecting in the back?

‘It’s just as it says. The war could end much sooner. So what do we need to do?’

As soon as Leeha’s thoughts got to there, the NPC spoke again.

“The task for the Byulcho Special force is simple. Before the siege begins, we settle near the Jeoksung fortress, and destroy their barricade.”

As soon as he finished speaking, a notification window popped up in front of all the people in the outpost.

(To be continued…)
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『Siege Warfare – Minis – Byulcho Special force mission-1』

Description: The Byulcho guild needs to destroy the enemies’ defensive barrier’s keystone. However, if it is too early, the enemy forces will notice, and if it is too late, the casualties will increase. You have to destroy it 2 days before the siege forces arrive. It will take at least 3 days for the keystone to be restored again.’

The commander-in-chief, Fibiel’s Pillar, Granville devised a plan to end the war at once. He wants to destroy his long-time rival, the Fox of the Prairie, ewin, as soon as possible.

Content: Destroy ‘Castle Van Cowl’s’ keystone 2 days after the command has been given.

Reward: Contribution points according to contribution on destroying the keystone, war contribution +500.

Conditions for Failure: Keystone remains intact after the siege begins, Keystone restoration before the siege ends.

Penalty for failure: War Contribution -3,000.

– Would you like to accept?

“Keystone…”

“Right. Find the brick with the magic circle on it and destroy it. If this special operation fails, the siege of our allies will be severely disrupted.”

Leeha nodded.

The penalty, which can be seen as the worst exchange rate ever, caught his eye.

‘It said that you could get even more contribution points based on activity but…. Minus three thousand is a bit harsh for only one failure.’

The members of the Byulcho special force were also looking at the quest window. There were some who had already turned pale.

“Could you give us some time to think about it?”

“As much time as you need. It would be nice to hear from the guild master of Hwahong.”

Granville nodded. With the indirect signal for getting Ram Hwayeon to persuade Leeha, as she approached him.

Leeha asked in a low voice.


“What happened? Is this is it?”

“Yes, our analysis is fine.”

“No, wait a minute. This is Middle Earth. There’s no way this operation will actually succeed, right? Minis army could be encircling us in the opposite direction”

“The Minis army will not come easily.”

“What? Why?”

Ram Hwayeon laughed at Leeha’s question. Her expression was full of confidence.

“Do you remember the other invasions?”

“The Sentinel mountainside and the riverside?”

“Yes. Pei Wu, hwangryong, and someone you know very well are coming along the Sentinel Mountain invasion route.”

“Who?”

“Well? They say you could tell by looking at their huge gun?” (ed: Oh no…)

A person came to Leeha’s mind after hearing the phrase “huge gun”. He was not looking at his friend’s list. Leeha, who opened the Three Musketeers window, immediately knew where Kidd was located.

“Yes. The world’s fastest marksman and an even faster sleeper, 『The Rapid fire』 Kidd. Even Pei Wu praises his skills.”

—

“Hwangryong- Lai Lai!”

Hwangryong- Lai Lai!

“It’s Pei Wu! Support! Support us!”

“They couldn’t send support- This and that, they’re all Fibiel! No, they are the members of the Hwangryong Guild!”

The color yellow speckled the desolate scene on the Sentinel Mountains.

At first glance, one would think that the fluttering yellow embroidery was the autumn leaves of a ginkgo tree, however, it was the uniform attire of the Hwangryong guild members.


Hwangryong is a guild where fighting with large numbers was a part of their tactics. It goes without saying that aside from Pei Wu, wh owas the strongest among them, there were also a lot of other martial arts experts.

“Stand back! Stand back! Looking at Hwangryong Guild alone, they have more NPCs than Minis!”

“Retreat! Retreat! Stop the Hwangryong guild while retreating! They are all martial artists, so if we don’t let them-!”

“Ascend, flying Dragon!”

Booom-!

Before the Minis soldier could finish his orders, his jaws dropped. At the end of Pei Wu’s fist, there was a violent blue energy.

“Die you bunch of crazy dogs, aaaahh-!”

In that gap, while he was landing after blowing them away, the Minis user’s tried to stab his sword

“Adamantine!”

Clang-!

“Huh?”

It was just then that his sword bent. The only reward for his hasty attack was death.

“Eighteenth Hwangryong Palms!”

He extended his palm several times and what came out from it was a golden dragon. All of the mid-level Minis users were swept away by Pei Wu.

“Run- run away!!”

“As expected, step back! Run away from Hwangryong!”

The Minis users started to run away in a hurry. The path to escape from those crossing the entire mountain range was very narrow.

A person’s shadow suddenly appeared in front of the people running in the narrow mountain path where three people could not move together at the same time.

“And where do you think you’re going?”

The eyes of the man who hopped down from a tree gleamed under the brim of his hat.


“W-what? Go!”

“What are you doing? Run quickly! Pei Wu is chasing us from behind!!”

The Minis users who suddenly stopped running had started to shout. However, the user at the front could not move forward. Despite the fact that the strongest person in the Sentinel Mountain at the moment, Pei Wu, was clearly behind them.

‘What the hell is up with this guy?’

Who was this person that oozed ‘strength’ as if there was a haze around his body!

“D-die! Thrust Dash-!”

A Minis user held his lance with both hands.

He stabbed by adding his acceleration to the rotation of his lance. It was the perfect skill for not only destroying an enemy’s formation, but for also breaking through what is in front of them!

However, Kidd, who had jumped down from the tree, did not hurry even after seeing the skill. He slowly put his hands on the hem of his coat and muttered quietly.

『Weapon Transformation: Revolver』

…

As light leaked from his coat, two revolvers appeared in Kidd’s hands.

Gunshot’s rang out like machine gun.

It was rather fortunate that the Minis’ army was not able to hear the gunshots.

“Now that’s……. Someone who knows where to fight.”

Kidd’s main weapon was a revolver. Although the range is short, the gun was light, making it easy to aim while moving quickly. In places where the visibility is limited due to the rough and rugged terrain like the Sentinel Mountains, where there were many trees, Kidd’s Crimson Geckos could exert power better than Leeha’s Black Bass could.

“They will arrive. —

By the time we start the siege, they will be moving through Minis.”

“Minis would be preoccupied with other armies that are invading from both sides-”

“They wouldn’t even know that the capital……is already ‘fucked’.” (ed: Watch your profanity)

“D-don’t say that-”

“Why? We either get the lands or castles. Isn’t that what this is?”

Ram Hwayeon, who said it, shrugged her shoulders, saying it was natural, but Leeha’s face heated up. It’s not that she was wrong, but…….

‘If that is true.’

They have a high chance.

There were only 7 castles on the way to Minis’ capital. When the forces from the Sentinel Mountains begin to invade Minis, they would not be able to move easily as they could now.

“But it’s not without variables.”

Leeha carefully said. This time the penalty was too severe. Even if it was 100% certain, he could not accept it so easily.

“What?”

“Alexander.”

The most important thing is that there was no news about the no.1 in the rankings.

“I was worried about that too. Because I didn’t know when Alexander would appear…. However, it will be fine.”

“How are you so sure?”

“It’s a situation of a Korean national level, didn’t you know? Lee Jiwon is grinding his teeth and chasing him.”

“Ah! I-I knew that-”

“I don’t know the details but Lee Jiwon is confidently announcing it. He said that he would win in a 1 on 1 match against Alexander.”

At Ram Hwayeon’s words, Leeha’s eyes widened. Leeha knew ‘why’ he was so confident!

‘He did it!’

It meant that Lee Jiwon succeeded in acquiring a soulmate.

He gained the soul link skill using Leeha’s advice. Considering the time so far, he may have helped his soul mate grow and increased the proficiency of the soul link skill.

While Leeha prepared for the war after meeting Fernand by getting one-shot achievements, Lee Jiwon trained his hidden skills to the point where we was confident talking about fighting the ‘Dragon Knight’.

‘Indeed. If Lee Jiwon were to beat Alexander, who would be the remaining rankers over there? The Assassin Petyr, the Dancer, and the Necromancer, Faust.’

There was also no news about them as well.

Are they preparing to defend now? Perhaps a person like Petyr, who had a strong personal inclination, may not participate in the war. (ed: No clue what Leeha’s on about, he did it last time at the castle and he’ll do it again.)

What if the Pei Wu-Kidd combination, who detoured toward the Sentinel Moutains, arrived earlier? No, what if they joined the team that is trying to breakthrough a single point in the shortest time possible with a siege?

“Uh hyung……? Aren’t we running out of time?”

Kijung came closer to Leeha and spoke.

The answer for the quest was not something that could be left alone for a long time. There was no time to use the ‘Bargaining’ skill because of his conversation with Ram Hwayeon, but it didn’t matter.

Because he had already decided that this quest was worth a shot.

“Let’s go, Kijung-ah.”

“Okay.”

Kijung nodded his head immediately. Instead, his quick response stunned Leeha for a second.

 “Huh? Good? Why aren’t you asking me if it’s dangerous?”

“If hyung wants to do it with such a confident expression, of course, there’s nothing we could do about it. Now is there? Our guild members have already finished talking. All members of Byulcho-”

Kijung gripped his shield’s handle strongly.

“-Protect Ha Leeha by any means necessary!.”

Clang!

The will of the Templar certainly reached Leeha’s heart. There was also an escort platoon that protected snipers. The strategic operation was fully understandable.

Well, I guess there was no reason to refuse.

“Commander-in-chief-nim, the Byulcho special force will carry out this mission.”

“Your strength is important. Improve your skills in the plains for the time being. I will give orders immediately according to the movements of the Minis army.”

“Understood sir.”

Even at this moment, the movements of Fibiel and Minis could be seen on the holographic map. Rather than 30 days, minis’ army will disappear from the Marching plain in 15 days.

All members of the Byulcho special force accepted the quest and came out of the tent. And Ram Hwayeon followed behind them.

“Where’s Ram Hwajung-ssi?”

“Tsk, isn’t it weird that you only use ‘ssi’ for Ram Hwajung? Anyway. She was dispatched to the Dike Coast campaign. The Kraven bastards must have been annoying.”

“Hmm. I see.”

There was also another reason why the following could not go directly to confirm it.

That is because, in the friend window, the position of other people aside from those who were in the Marching Plains was currently hidden.

“I can’t even whisper.”

“What?”

“Are you looking at the friend’s window right now?”

“Y-yes. Are you a psychic?”

Ram Hwayeon understood his thoughts so well that he wondered if she could read his mind. It also meant that she was constantly ‘observing’ Leeha, but Leeha wasn’t able to think that far.

“I see. Is it limited to the same field, Ram Hwayeon-nim?”

“Tale-nim is right. During a war, locations and whispers are limited to one campaign. If you’re in the capital, you would only hear some information here and there…. It is impossible to whisper to someone who is in another region. It’s like blocking the information with the enemy’s mana.”

“Indeed. That’s why I can’t even see Jachung.”

“Yes. Jachung is with Hwajung.”

However, if there was some good news, it was the location of the Three Musketeers. At least Leeha could still see the location of Kidd and Luger. It meant that the power of the ‘Three Musketeers’ is stronger than the information-blocking mana.

‘Is Luger not interested in the war? He’s in a place with absolutely nothing to do with the war.’

Is he really hunting even at a time like this?

War would be better if enemy soldiers were treated as monsters. Luger was wandering somewhere in a neutral area called the ‘Land of the Dead’.

“Okay, I’m gonna go now.”

“You’re going?”

“I have no reason to stay on the battlefield. I should come back after the battle in the Marching Plains is over”

Ram Hwayeon shrugged her shoulders.

“Well, aren’t you a greedy little pig for contribution points?”

(To be continued…)
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“Huhut, what do you think I will get after this supply mission is over?”

“……Well. Most soldiers would have hundreds of victories under their belt.”

She will be treated like the greatest contributor in advancing toward the enemy capital. In order to occupy a high ground, someone will even sacrifice their life to get one or two contribution points….

“-harsh.”

“What?”

Leeha, who had been thinking about something else for a moment, missed what she said. Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi, who were next to Leeha, were barely able to hold back their laughter.

“Take care…… cough, take care of yourself! Because Petyr is still lurking around!”

“Yes, don’t worry. Can’t you see our members?”

Most of the people who guarded the king were here. Ram Hwayeon looked at them, but her worries did not go away.

“In any case, be careful. Hmph, I’m leaving!” (ed: Lol bye)

“Yes, take care Ram Hwayeon!”

As soon as Leeha finished his farewells, Ram Hwayeon disappeared.

“Hmmm, hyung?”

“What? What’s with your face?”

As Kijung slowly approached. He had a very serious expression.

“Hyung, this is a big deal, do you know how to speak Cantonese? I learned a little bit of Chinese… so I can at least speak a little Mandarin.”

“What nonsense are you talking about?”

Hearing Kijung’s serious concern, Leeha had an ominous premonition. What was he even trying to say?


“They mainly speak Cantonese in Hong Kong. And again…… I don’t know if auntie will allow an international marriage-”

“W-what?! W-what cough-!” (ed: I’m confused too, Leeha)

“It would be nice if I get a sister-in-law from a chaebol family, right? Wouldn’t that be cool?”

In the end Leeha could not help but have a coughing fit, but Kijung just would not stop talking.

Beside them, Biyemi and Tale were smiling brightly.

“Kikis, popular, so popular.”

“I understand to a certain extent that Leeha-kun is from the military, but hmm, I think he would get caught-”

“Biyemi-nim! Tale-nim, why are you like that? Stop it, stop it.”

They did not stop joking around only until Leeha flipped out.

The laughter that did not fit the atmosphere of this battlefield, went on for a long time, but it eventually calmed down.

“Then what are we going to do, hyung?”

“I have a rough idea……. Let’s get information about the defensive barrier first, then we’ll talk about it again.”

“Don’t we have lots of time anyway?”

“Yeah. Everyone from Byulcho have been through a lot. Since we have at least 15 days left in Middle Earth, let’s all get a good night’s sleep, get well rested, and meet again in the morning.”

They didn’t have to be always present to have a plan. However, everyone objected to Leeha’s proposal.

“Ha Leeha-nim is moving, so how could we sleep! I will level up to be of more help to Leeha-nim!”

“That’s right! I will participate in another high ground battle!”

“It’s nice to ride the bus, but Byulcho also needs to get respect!”

They were the elites chosen by Kijung. It meant that they were in awe and admired Leeha’s overwhelming ability, but thats what was also motivating them.

“Kek, okay. Okay. But don’t overdo it. I will contact you through Kijung, so we need to be able to gather everyone together on time.”


Understood!

Kijung shook his head as he watched his guild members answer together. He grumbled, I don’t even know who the guild master is anymore.

“Then, see you later, Kijung-ah, Tale-nim, and Biyemi-nim.”

“Okay. Be careful, hyung. Ah! I will give you gold for any dropped items.”

“Okay. I believe you.”

After saying goodbye to Byulcho, Leeha headed to the capital.

It would be quicker to get information from a simple battlefield nearby, but Leeha wanted to know the larger picture of the upcoming siege warfare. In other words, it was obvious where he was going.

“Oh, are you busy?”

“Yes, I’m busy! Wait! Those are the documents that are going to the royal palace!”

He was in Madam Ju’s office in the Holy Grill. Unlike the usual, even Madam Ju’s room was overflowing with all kinds of documents and personnel.

“I have a question about this siege.”

“I heard about it. Leeha, the captain of Byulcho Special force. You took on a special mission to infiltrate the Minis Kingdom, right?”

There was a little delay from leaving the command post of the Marching Plains to this place. He had a chat with Ram Hwayeon and Kijung. However, during that brief period of time, the information had already reached Madam Ju’s in that short period of time.

“This is why I like talking to Madam Ju, the conversation is always quick.”

He was no longer surprised. Leeha smiled and sat down on a chair.

“……Then do you know where the keystone is?”

“You have to find that yourself. I don’t even know where they put it in that wide outer wall.”

“Aigoo…”

Leeha expected it to be difficult, but it was more annoying than he expected. The more he heard Madam Ju’s words, the more he frowned.

“Are there any special characteristics? For example, if they are usually placed in the middle of the gate next to-”


“Minis mages aren’t that stupid. They must have hid it well. However, as long as it’s a brick infused with mana, it must face the direction of defense. The keystone of the southern wall can only protect the southern wall.”

“You’re saying that it is possible to see from the outside…”

Middle Earth is also a game. Of course, attack points should be given. However, it was completely absurd.

Without any clue, they had to find that one brick that had a pattern on it out of the countless bricks that made the outer wall. Does that even make sense?

‘If we get too close-’

We would get caught. Minis’ knights, NPCs and users are grinding their teeth in Castle Van Cowl, they would run out and tear Leeha apart if they caught sight of even a strand of his hair.

‘If the distance is far-’

Observation would be difficult.

‘If we arrive too early and start looking for it-’ We would also run the risk of getting caught. The more he movements he made, the higher the probability that Minis will recognize Leeha.

‘If we go too late-’

There’s the possibility that he wouldn’t find the keystone in time before the siege troops arrive.

‘Even if I take the Byulcho guild as an escort-‘

If they moved in groups, they would be conspicuous

‘If I go alone-’

Leeha will die a dogs death.

“Haaaa…”

Leeha covered his face and sighed. Even when he thought about it to himself, the answer did not come to him easily.

“Are you okay? Your face doesn’t look so good.”

“Don’t lie, your face never changes. Aphew, yes, who told you it would be easy?”

Leeha stood up feeling desperate. It was nothing new. Quests with huge rewards always boasted extremely high difficulty. And Leeha had cleared all those quests before.

“Madam, do you have any schematic drawings of Castle Van Cowl? The length and height of each fortress wall in the east, west, north and south, as well as the surrounding terrain.”

“Sure. As long as you have the complete map of Minis, you can see it as much as you want.”

“Give me one. Ah, since it’s war time, please send all the information requesting fees I requested to Commander-in-Chief Granville.”

“That’s what I was going to do. I will take advantage of that, because a certain someone has never paid for the information usage fees before.”

Madam Ju smiled as she handed Leeha the map. Castle Van Cowl, the first destination of the siege warfare, was clearly shown to Leeha.

‘At least 15 days, and a maximum of 30 days until the start of the siege.”

In the meantime, Leeha opened his character window to check his experience bar. 88%. It would be fine as long as he raised his level while movig through the Marching Plains.

Tik一 Tik- Tik一.

****

His eyes near the scope did not even move.

Leeha slowly adjusted the scope’s horizontal-vertical level without blinking, as if his eyes were fake.

‘There would be three more after passing through this high ground.’

It would have been shameful to even call it a defense line. Capturing this high ground in the middle of the four remaining fronts meant, in effect, the end of the battle for the Marchich Plains.

There were overgrown weeds, blood, and the gray corpses of soldiers. Leeha’s muzzle was aimed at a large white hat.

The person wearing the hat was not yet visible.

He could only see the hat sticking out.

But Leeha knew who it was. The person wearing the hat was ‘Saint’ Raphaela.’

Among the outsiders, she was a unique healer, famous for her wide-area healing. Just looking at the seven tanks with shields lining up around to protect her, one could see her importance she was to the Minis army.

Two bear-like tankers in front and one on each side of her. And since she was standing behind them, one couldn’t even see her figure.

‘Normally, that kind of defense would have been enough. No one would have been able to target her.’

The arrows and even magic could be perfectly defended against by the tankers. However… there was one thing that the Minis army, including her, were mistaken about.

If they had really wanted to protect her. She should have never worn such a conspicuous hat.

“Huuuuu.”

The wind direction and wind speed have already been taken into account. The clicks have been adjusted accordingly. Leeha slowly released his breath and pulled the trigger.

Baaaang!

A bullet with the speed of roughly 830m/s left the muzzle, and in about 1.16 seconds.

The white had was soaked in blood. It was a bonus that the face of the tanker standing in front of her disappeared. (ed: Poor hat ( ─︠ ︵ ︡─))

『You have leveled up.』

‘I hope the assimilation rate is low, and that she had already logged out before she felt the pain.’

Leeha stayed silent toward her and the tanker that was protecting her until the brilliant light that enveloped him disappeared.

He sniped at a distance of 970m on the plain.

Immediately after the death of Saint Raphaela, there was great chaos in the Minis army. It wasn’t just because the saint had died. But It was also because everyone could imagine how the saint died.

‘It’s the Byulcho Special force’s again! It would have been crazy, and that’s why the name shouldn’t be too well know. The only thing that’s left when a sniper’s name became well known, is a wanted man.’

Leeha got up and put the Black Bass in the case. Now, only 10 days before the battle on the Marching Plains would come to a close. He had around 8 to 10 days left before the order is given to him.

‘Strictly speaking, it is not easy.’

He must find Castle Van Cowl’s keystone. And be prepared to destroy it as soon as the command was issued.

“Uwaaaaah, tsk. What else can I do but die? Whatever. Character window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 162 (0%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements:93

HP ： 4,420(3,094) MP ： 1,160

Strength: 280(+195)

Agility: 2,026(+817)

Intelligence: 148(+97)

Constitution: 145(+52)

Mind: 40(+30)

Remaining Stat Points: 5

The 26 accumulated stats from killing 100 enemies were already distributed to his agility. His health was low because Forbidden Rage rage was applied, and there was nothing else he could do.

Investing 5 stat points now would not increase his chances for survival.

‘Is there a character that is forced to have agility like this? No matter how much I want to…”

It could considered a fortune among misfortune that because of the achievement he had obtained so far, his constitution is pretty good.

Leeha distributed 5 stat points into agility and opened the map he got from Madam Ju. The map showed the whole of Minis, there were a lot of notes. When one zoomed in, he could see all kinds of symbols and numbers written around the castle..

Of course, everything was written by Leeha.

‘Castle Van Cowl…….’

His analysis was complete. All that was left was to put it into practice. Leeha looked at the penetration route he made and points of caution once more.

‘I’m taking the risk, but I feel sorry for Kijung.’

When Leeha shared his plan, Kijung and the rest of Byulcho guild members protested. However, they were not able to do anything. Because the circumstances didn’t allow for extra personnel.

In fact, the given mission was the tantamount of a solo mission that was only for Leeha.

Leeha tore a scroll towards the location of the siege.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Weekly Chapters:4/5

Owed chapter: 4
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Van Cowl castle was a typical medieval castle built in the middle of a wide open plain.

Although it had no moat, the wall that protected its interior was built as high as the inner wall of the Fibiel royal palace, and it could almost crush people with its intimidating pressure. (ed: Well damn.)

It couldn’t simply be climbed by a ladder, and if someone were to use magic to climb it, they would be killed by the garrison.

Due to the nature of Minis having so many plains, its only weakness is that it can be surrounded in all directions, from north, east, west, and south.

And Minis knew this all too well.

‘Usually, there was an internal security force for safety and defense, or in the case of Fibiel, knights were put into place, but in Minis-’

They had defense forces. What was worse was that it was in the form of ‘mounted units’.

The castle’s defense and horseback riding was an incompatible combination, but the country’s topography made it possible. Not just in the defense of the castle, but in the form of field interception, swift messengers can summon reinforcements from surrounding castles when the mounted corps confronts the enemy.

In addition, since a wide search can be carried out by taking advantage of horseback riding, it was usually difficult to target only one castle. A surprise siege is their only weakness, and it was Minis’ mission to make just that an impossible feat.

‘The normal boundary range of the cavalry is 5km in all directions of the castle. If they consider moving further because of the war…’

Leeha was currently 8km away from Castle Van Cowl. It meant that he had to be careful.

Since he had entered Minis alone, it was only natural that he was not able to see where the Byulcho special forces were. Whispering to them was also impossible.

Leeha, who practically fell into the enemy camp, lowered his posture as much as possible and proceeded to look around.

‘Mana clairvoyance!’

Leeha opened the scope cap and used his skill. What looked like a haze in the distance was a cloud of dust caused by the movements of the enemy cavalry.

Even looking through the scope with 30 times magnification, it was still quite far. The only thing he could see was a group of people caught by the mana clairvoyance skill moving around.

He closed the scope cap and hurriedly walked with the Black Bass again.

Their direction and Leeha’s direction were pretty much the opposite of each other. It was not even possible to see the situation from one side to the other.


Then, when the guards found out that they had moved to the other side, they had to move as well.

‘They don’t use 24-hour surveillance huh.’

Even though it was wartime, something like that was still impossible.

It takes huge amount of money to continue operating magic or scrolls that have a narrow search range. So, the basis of their judgment was a visual search. Leeha decided to take advantage of that.

Leeha’s march, which would have taken 2 hours even while walking normally, was five times slower than usual, he had to check the surroundings, lower his posture, wait, and even crawl to move forward.

‘The sun had long since gone down.’

He crossed the Minis border at dawn when the sun was just about to rise, and it took 12 hours just to reach the first castle. It was proof that the boundary of Castle Van Cowl was wider than Leeha had expected.

Normally he would stop there.

Mana Clairvoyance was also an effective way for identifying people in the dark, but it did not illuminate the darkness itself.

Because a sneaking person cannot light a torch or cast light magic.

In other words, it was normal to not be able to move around.

Shiiinh-!

“That is, if it weren’t for this.”

In the darkness, Leeha’s teeth shone under the moonlight.

Almost half of his face was covered by Hell Anvil’s ‘Night Vision’. His vision was green, but it was bright enough for him to move.

After another hour of marching like that, Leeha finally saw a huge fortress in the distance with his own eyes.

‘Castle Van Cowl.’

After examining the castle in the middle of flat land with few hills for a while, Leeha took out his map and compared it.

‘I wish I could get a little closer…. However, there was no other cover than this.’

There was no more places to hide other than his current location, which was an embarrassment to even call it a forest, because there was only one tree that he was currently leaning on!


Well, it was night time.

It was fortunate that even the moonlight was weak. He could have gone a little further and take a look at the walls, but what about after that?

‘I will get caught once the sun rises. However, in this wide castle, at least two keystones must be secured.’

He didn’t know which wall he had to attack, it could be the north or east.

That judgment will be left to the Fibiel’s army commander who will come here soon. It will be decided then and the ‘command’ will be given to Leeha later.

As such, at least two keystones, possibly all four, should be identified and destroyed in a timely manner.

‘But to do that……’

Leeha folded the map, put it in his bag, and looked at the terrain where the rocks and weeds had grown by at least 330m.

“Huu, huu, huu.”

Then he caught his breath.

‘This is crazy, this is really crazy!’

Leeha went on and on. But he couldn’t help it. Was is not possible unless there is madness.

‘Let’s go!’

Leeha moved away from the tree and then ran quickly.

Pak, pak, pak, pak!

If they had night vision as well, they might have spotted Leeha on the wall. However, they didn’t! (ed: HA! What a bunch of losers)

‘Whoa whoa!’

Whaaak, Leeha barely hid by sliding behind a rock. He was now around only 450m away from the wall. If he used his scope, he would be able to see the stones of the eastern wall as if he were looking from 15m away.

‘Oh God of sniping, please help me.’

Of course, it did not mean that he would look at all of the bricks for 12 hours until the sun came up. After examining the description of the skill for the first time, Leeha exclaimed.


“Camouflage.”

Leeha’s body, which was lying among a few rocks, and knee-high weeds, began to slowly disappear.

Chuk,chuk,chuk,chuk.

***

A long line continued endlessly toward Castle Van Cowl. The flashing armors, spears, and swords were enough to show their level, but the faces of those who wore them were dark.

“Who’s looking for a team member who has 100 contribution points or more~?”

“Let’s combine platoons! Let’s combine platoons! We currently have 17 people, do you want to join us? Up to 20 people can join!”

“I have whetstone. Whetstone.”

They were all Minis users. After their defeat in the Marching Plains, there was no way the faces of the remnants who were going to Castle Van Cowl would be bright.

“Hey, are those Fibiel bastards good at fighting?”

“I don’t know, damn it. I went to war and died pointlessly. My contribution points are in the negative and also dropped a bunch of my items.”

“Where are all our rankers? What are they even doing? I didn’t even see the tip of their nose.”

“I know that Alexander is an egotistical bastard. But what can he do while leveling up alone- Uwaaaak?!”

“Uwaaaak! What is it?! Why are you screaming!?”

A user who was walking with his friend looked around in surprise. Even his friend next to him looked at him in surprise, but he was only looking at empty air.

“What, damn it, what?”

“Why? Why? What”

“I don’t…… know. I think I stepped on something. Like slime.”

The user raised his leg and touched his ankle. His friend looked carefully, but there was nothing stuck on his boot.

“There’s nothing there? And what kind of slime would go near Castle Van Cowl?”

“I don’t know! What’s wrong with you?”

However, there was nothing around.

“I guess it’s dog shit. You’re noisy, let’s go quickly.”

The user’s friends was quick to move. However, the user who stepped on something could not walk away easily.

“There was…… definitely something there……. No, hey! Isn’t it weird if it really dogs shit?”

“Ah, hurry up! If you want to get the Castle defense quest, we need to get in position in advance! We need to get back our lost contribution points!”

“Okay.”

Fuck, what did I step on anyway?”

The user who stepped into something started chasing after his friend again.

Step, step, step, the seemingly endless march continued for a long time, and when all the Minis’ remnants entered Castle Van Cowl.

A familiar voice resounded into the air from the overgrown weeds and rocks.

“Pheeew……. That bastard, where is he stepping? It’s a place that has never been used properly… That was close.”

There was no human figure visible. However, his expression could be imagined from his voice alone, even if one couldn’t see it.

****

“M-my lord, e-enemy forces are coming!”

“We already expected that, stop making a fuss.”

“T-that- It- it- But it isn’t just two divisions! There are 15- No, assuming that there are still enemy forces that could not be seen, 30 divisions are coming toward Van Cowl! The enemy is advancing quickly!”

One of Minis’ generals turned white. Minis NPC’s conversation was heard by Minis users.

“That’s nonsense. Those Fibiels aren’t fools. No matter how small of a castle this is, as long as there are the Castle’s defenses, they would need to take a lot of time. Therefore, it would be impossible if they were to attack Van Cowl. Don’t they know how many troops we could gather within a day or two?”

“How could they not know! However, if you think about Fibiel’s previous strategy-”

“It’s okay. No, I would rather have them gather at our castle as the general had thought. Isn’t it better to annihilate those arrogant bastards all at once?”

Castle Van Cowl’s lord smiled.

Minis’ general frowned as he saw the lord’s smile. Even the users around them thought that the lord of Castle Van Cowl was making a mistake.

What would happen if they make it this far?

If the castle defense failed, will Castle Van Cowl belong to the Fibiel Kingdom?

‘Where’s the guild that invested in the commercial monopoly here? It’s like they stepped on shit.’

‘Shouldn’t we suggest that we lead the defense forces? If we succeed in the castle defense, why don’t we try to negotiate in getting the exclusive right to the commercial activities?’

In the conference room of the generals and lower-level NPCs. There were also users who stuck their necks out for Minis.

Even among users, the opinions differed as to whether the castle defense would work or not, and at a time when there was a lot of infighting among the NPCs, it was the lord of Castle Van Cowl who put things together.

“The commander-in-chief has his given orders.”

“What?”

The NPC general, who was voicing his thoughts about the dangers at Castle Van Cowl asked. However, the lord did not answer any further.

“That’s all I can say.”

“T-that……. What about the commander-in-chief…”

Even the users who heard those words could not understand what it meant.

‘Ewin? The fox of the prairie? What instructions could he have given for the lord to be so confident.’

‘What? What did you hear? Damn it, I have to pay that girl money for her to tell me something.’

‘I think there’s something weird…. How will they defend? Do they think that we will take the lead?’

As they were all in their thoughts, the conference room’s doors shook violently.

“What’s going on?”

Baaaang, as soon as the door opened, the NPC started shouting.

“The enemy forces are here! The Fibiel forces are marching fast! About three hours away, the number of troops is roughly-”

Heok, his words mixed with his gasping breath as his voice was filled with fear. And the cause of that fear was.

“A-a million! There are about 100 confirmed division flags! Virtually the entire army of Fibiel from the Marching Plains are rushing over here!”

However, Fibiel’s operation was bold enough to even exceed their expectations. To the extent that users who had different thoughts until recently started to quickly use their teleport scrolls.

****

“What a spectacular sight, what a magnificent view.”

“Is this all of the users from Fibiel?”

“No. Are you saying that there are about a million people going here? Not a chance.”

“Hey, damn it, there are people everywhere. It’s my first time seeing the horizon filled with people.”

Even while marching in lines of five, the users did not stop chatting.

It was a sea of people! There were so many people from Fibiel marching to Castle Van Cowl.

Of course, one million was not a lot compared to the total number of users in the game.

Right now, based on Fibiel Kingdom alone, there was a significant number of people on the battlefield on the Sentinel Mountains side, the Witchmore Riverside, and the Dike Beachside.

In addition, those who participated in the war are all at least level 100.

If they had endured until now, it meant that they had reached level 150 or even higher. That means there were a million such people.

If all the users had really gathered, the cumulative number of subscribers would exceed 100 million, and the number of concurrent users on Middle Earth exceeded 30 million, that is why 1 million was a low figure.

“Indeed. With such a large army, the cavalry that Castle Van Cowl is so proud of will not be of any use.”

(To be continued…)
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“Kikis. I see. 

‘Fibiel’s Pillar, Granville’……. I’ve heard that he’s a general who only carries out very conservative and typical tactics, but this is definitely a bold operation on his part.”

Tale and Biyemi was also in the group.

Previously they were in the form of an independent army classified as a special force, but now they could not move as freely like before. For the time being, they must travel with this group.

They would often stare into the air while moving. It was to check their friend window.

“What are you going to do, Kay.”

“Firs…… First of all. There’s nothing we can do right now.”

Kijung’s clenched his fist in regret.

In his mind, he wanted to go to Leeha right away, but he wasn’t in a position where he could.

“Kikis, guild master-nim is right. We are in our place. We know a piece of information that others don’t, so we need to focus on increasing the contribution of the ‘special force’ with that.”

“Hmm, then do we go first?”

“Yes. We will go fisrt. The most important thing to set the ball is to stand out.”

As Kijung was giving detailed instructions while looking at his guild members, Fibiel army’s advancement finally stopped. Their army formed on a road to Castle Van Cowl that had been destroyed for some time.

The Minis users were able to clearly see the Fibiel army preparing for the last ‘stroke’.

“What should we do?”

“Ah, we’re fucked. This is crazy, why is there 1 million of them? I have only heard about things like this from the ‘Romance of the Three Kingdoms’.”

“In any case, everyone needs to get ready. We will begin to cast when all of them are blocked by the barrier.”

On the walls of Van Cowl, the ranged damage dealers and mages tried to calm their pounding hearts.


“Aren’t they right in front of us?”

“Yes. You should never cast too hastily. I heard that allied attacks go out of the barrier and all enmey attacks are blocked- no, the enemy forces could not even enter the barried in the first place.”

“Will we last a week?”

The commander of the defense of the wall knew the most. The other users beside him listened.

“Yes. It would normally charge if it is deactivated, but once it is activated, it will last a week. But when it gets attacked, it will decrease, right?”

“It will not be able to withstand the attack of 1 million enemies for one week…… it will only last for about three to four days.”

“That will be enough time. Let’s pour out all our magic for three days, and get the contribution, and immediately use our scrolls after that. I am the commander of the defense, but this is nonsense from the start.”

“That’s right! How could we stop it! I don’t know if Alexander would show up, so I’m extremely sorry for Minis.”

“What if this castle is taken by Fibiel later?”

“Hey, Middle Earth probably wouldn’t let that happen.”

While the users were complaining, a loud trumpet finally sounded from the Fibiel army.

They saw a small dot running in front of the million slowly moving army.

***

“Then, there’s no one willing to go first.”

All division commander NPCs bowed their heads at Granville’s heavy voice. Granville looked around the crowd and spoke again.

“You don’t trust your allies that much?”

“But commander-in-chief-nim, all of the special forces are here now. They are going to do it alone, and if the operation is successful, doesn’t that mean that Castle Van Cowl is easy?”

“……What if it fails?”

“Well if it fails- the division that would take the lead……”

The division commander NPC could not continue talking. There was really no need to bring out the bad news.


What if he couldn’t destroy the keystone?

They would not be able to retreat and get stuck later because of their allies and because of the barrier, they would die without being able to fight back.

Standing at the forefront of a siege literally meant being the arrowhead. The division commander NPCs did not want to sacrifice their own troops in the war that had only now started in earnest.

Because there’s still a long way to get the biggest profits.

“Then let us go.”

“Huh?”

Kijung, who had been listening to their words, stepped forward.

“Isn’t this the task you entrusted to the Byulcho special force? Then we will be at the forefront.”

“Can you do it?”

“Please trust me.”

Granville nodded at Kijung’s words, but the other NPC’s reactions were different. They only had 30 people. What could 30 people possibly do?

“Nothings going to change! It’s only the difference of between whethere 30 people would die or not! Without certainty of success-”

“Do you think we will do this without any certainty?”

“What? Even though you’re a special force, how dare you say you’re an independent army, -”

“Stop. Stop it.”

The division commander NPC glared at Kijung’s words, but it was stopped by Granville.

Most importantly, Kijung is a guild master that carries a guild on his shoulders. Although he did not receive any special training in this war, he had experience from several previous battles, including guild wars. His eyes, which was filled with faith, were not inferior to Granville.

“Okay. Prepare the trumpet.”

“Commander-in-Chief.”

“I told you to prepare the trumpet.”


“-……I understand! Prepare the entire army to advance, prepare for a siege!”

The advancement order was issued to the entire Fibiel army.

The users and NPCs who were preparing for the battle in the first place had nothing to prepare in particular. They only had to check their potions, scrolls, weapon state and skill cooldowns.

A million Fibiel troops lined up in a half-arc in front of Castle Van Cowl for the siege. And in the middle of the arc was a tiny dot sticking out.

“Are you ready?”

Of course!

“Everyone, don’t die. The time alloted to us is a minute, or maybe less than 40 seconds.”

Kijung raised his shield.

“But as long as you can move properly within that-”

A special-purpose formation that thirty people research and practiced over and over again.

“Yes. The ones who will stand out and reap the most rewards in this war will be us!.”

Gulp, someone gulped.

Wuoooooong—-!

The first sound of the trumpet sounded like a boat horn. The eerie low tone resonated with everyones heart.

“Byulcho special force! Get ready to charge!”

Go!

Step, step, step. Not only the tanks, but also the dealers raised their shield.

An ancient defensive formation that surrounds 30 people in a square and defends the front, rear, left and right, as well as the upper surface with a shield, testudo.

In a formation like this, it would certainly not be stopped by a few arrows.

Wuoooooong—-!

And finally, the second trumpet blew. Kijung bellowed.

“Charge!”

Waaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaah-!

Looking from the sky, it looked just like a tiny dot rasing dust in the camp of a million men.

“Run, run!”

“Get in formation! Don’t tangle each others feet! Just like we have practiced!”

“One two, one two, left-right, left-righ!”

At a steady pace, the stack of shields ran toward Castle Van Cowl. It was an absurd charge from the point of view of the Minis soldiers on top of the Van Cowl walls.

“What is that?”

“I don’t know. A Suicide Sqaud?”

“I thought it was some kind of train. Are those shields?”

They honestly did not stand out.

However, the speed of one small group running ahead was faster compared to the speed of the main army that had one million troops.

“There will always be people like that in a war. Kids running around due to excitement.

“Do you know what happen to those kinds of kids?”

“They die first. Kek, I’ve seen it a lot in the Marching Plains already.”

There were a lot of ranged damage dealers and mages lined up on the wall. There were enough people to kill those who were running at them even if they only shot at them once.

“Come, come, I will kill you if you want. They will get to the edge of the barrier soon, get ready to cast! The mages in charge of the barrier please stand this way.”

Bows and crossbows were pulled. Mages prepared their basic magic by rasing their wands, staffs, orbs, or books. The main unit had not yet arrived, so it was a waste to use advanced magic on them.

“Get ready to inject mana to the barrier once they are 15m-20m away!”

The barrier would be activated in the immediate vicinity of the wall Whether it was bow or magic, it was enough to react at all ranges.

“10m- 7, 5, 3m, lm- Activate!!!”

The fortress defender shouted.

It was said that the moment it was activated, light would emit from the keystone and a barried would appear in front of the wall in one direction. Even the user who was the commander of the defense had never seen it.

“Oh… Are they still running?”

“Hmm? What? Right there! Activate the barrier! Activate it! Didn’t I tell you to inject mana into it?”

“I-I have injected it already. I am activating it as I was taught- No, its not activating!”

“Wah, what are you talking about?”

The commander of the defense hurriedly ran and injected his mana. He felt his mana decrease, but that was all. The barrier did not activate.

“What? What happened?”

“Commander-nim! Whats going on?”

“Wait. This-this, someone call the NPCs! There’s no barrier! They said all I had to do was activate it-”

“Huh? Ahhhhh! T-t-that, they threw their shields!”

The distance at which the barrier was created was only 50m from the wall, and if the barrier did not activate, then they would be ablet to reach the wall in a few seconds.

“Guild master-nim!”

“As expected! It’s as hyung said after all! Get everything ready! It would be clear when the timing is right!”

Byulcho special force broke up the Tetsudo and ran at full speed. What was attached to the back of the shield they were holding?

“We are 20m away from the gate! Biyemi-nim!”

“Everything has to be right! Because the scope of this is not wide!”

Biyemi was also different from the past.

His move casting was not the same as it was in the past. The Lizardia was running at full speed while casting. It was only natural that there was a commotion on the wall.

“Sticky poison, Kaaaak—-!”

Spit, spit, spiiiit-!

His cheeks swellep up, and the venom shot out in an instant. Splat, splat, Kijung exclaimed after seeing the thick venom sticking to the wall.

“Ignite!”

A short line protruded from the back of the shield they were holding. There was a spark there.

“Tuchoook-!”

Whip, whip, whip!

And the shields cut through the air. When all the shields flew towards the thick venom spit that Biyemi spat around the gates.

The ‘fuse line’ behind the shields were almost gone.

Baang—!

“Waah! What- what happened?!”

“The suicide squad really committed suicide- no, they threw something at the gate-”

The vibration shook the entire eastern wall of Castle Van Cowl and put everyone into a panic. A powerful explosion occured near the gate, and a wall of dust rose.

When the dust began to disappear, what they now saw was the defenseless Minis army.

It was the defenselessness of their enemy that made Fibiel army smile.

“The gates have been opened!!!! The Byulcho Special force broke through the gates! Fibiel army—–”

There was no army that would stand still after seeing that. The Fibiel army, which was advancing slowly with doubtful expressions, ran like beasts.

“——charge!!!”

“Kijung-ah, the keystone is already broken.”

“However, do not report it to Ron or the other users.”

“Why not?”

“Aren’t we supposed to fill our belly first? Are we going to destroy the castle defense’s keystone and let other units break through the castle gates? Isn’t the main point of the siege is ‘Who will enter the enemy castle first’?”

Of course, our special force should join the ranks, shouldn’t we?

“So, as I said, you just have to charge. Go to Hell Anvil and find a smithy called Bottleneck. I’ve already talked to that dwarven blacksmith, so he should be able to pick it up right away. Because I already asked them to make a special product that can be attached to the back of the shield with an explosive that is stronger than a normal bomb.

Then you will know what to do”

“When other users or NPCs try to shirk responsibility while making a fuss, we must unconditionally take the lead. Trust me and run.”

“There will definitely be no barrier. Even if the enemy gets close to the gate and notices that there’s no barrier, there will be a gap of 30 seconds to a minute.”

“After thinking about what is going on or why it didn’t it work, Fibiel army will finally reach the front of the castle gate. So, before that, destroy the gate.”

“And…… hold on. You must.”

“If our allies notice that the gates are completely destroyed, they will rush in at a tremendous speed.”

“Before they go down to face you, they will try to tie up your feet and try to stop the army by launching ranged attacks and magic from the top of the wall.”

“Do you understand? It’s simple. First destroy the gates.”

“Second, break in quickly.”

“Third, somehow survive for 5 minutes.”

“Fourth, pick up the items, and clean up all the gold for me. Okay?”

“There are a lot of Minis troops in Castle Van Cowl, is the third step a ‘simple’ thing to do, hyung!!! It’s okay, it’s- shit, protection energy!”

(To be continued…)
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Shwaaah-!

Kijung shouted out his skill while recalling his conversation with Leeha the other day.

As the milky energy spread to all the Byulcho special force members, their defenses strengthened.

The number of soldiers from the Fibiel army, which was advancing so far, was approximately one million. Although they were repeatedly defeated in the Marching Plains, minis’ army had a comparable number of soldiers as well. Although they retreated and dispersed in various directions within Minis, the number of Minis troops in Castle Van Cowl was over 200,000.

It meant that the number of people in front of the 30-person special force was about that much, and Kijung had the right to complain to Leeha about it.

“Wind, wind shield! Concentrate on holding on! Let’s protect each other’s backs!”

“Understood, vice guild master-nim!”

The operation that Leeha had told Kijung earlier had been communicated to everyone in the special force. From the fact that the keystone was already destroyed, destroying the castle gate with specially crafted items, to entering the castle first, everything went according to Leeha’s plan.

‘Amazing! As expected, he’s an amazing guy!’

Tale lightly parried a Minis user’s sword and cut his neck.

“Chuwak-!”

 Blood spurted out, but he was so happy that he didn’t even care about it. From the first time he saw Leeha, Tale thought he was unusual.

In fact, Leeha overcame difficulties using his own strength, demonstrating skills that no one else had. Such a person was also adept at macro-strategies and tactics!

‘My eyes weren’t wrong!’

It also made Tale happy.

What a joy it was to say that his eyes were not wrong at all, that a level 20 user that he met one day had grown to such a degree that it shook up the strategy of the entire army.

And Biyemi felt that joy as well.

‘Kikis, from the moment he said he killed the Black Angus, I thought his skills were not normal, but to think it would by this much.’


He was also brilliant in Candle Castle but that was nothing compared to this.

It could not be compared to the current Leeha who was accustomed to Middle Earth to the point of being confident at assassinating rankers. After leaving Candle Castle, he wondered if they would ever meet again.

However, what about now?

Luger, who had fought against Alexander, the number 1 in the ranking, and Kidd, who had defeated Shin Nara, in Biyemi’s eyes were a little less compared to Leeha.

(ed: Hey! Don’t sleep on my man Kidd like that)

‘Even killing that Petyr…. Kikis, half of it was thanks to me.’

Biyemi finished casting with a forward roll.

Metaphorically speaking, he would be able to succeed in rolling forward even while holding a cup full of water.

Then he spat poison on his dagger.

He knew how effective a poison-filled dagger was, a weapon he had used since he was the assassin ‘Nguyen’,.

“What kind of magician-”

“Shpock!”

Biyemi moved his sword to avoid the user and stabbed him on the side.

“-is this quick!”

Then, he turned to avoid the other soldier’s sword, and slightly scratched his forearm, in the gap between the glove and the armguard. He only got hit once, and it wasn’t a particularly serious injury, but his body trembled and his actions hardened.

“Kiskis, idiots who fight without even drinking poison resistance potion all deserve to die.”

The effect of poison-related status abnormalities is activated randomly.

Paralysis was triggered continuously, and he rolled his eyes, but the swords of the other Byulcho special force members did not stop. The neck of two Minis soldiers was separated from their bodies.

“Use your magic!”

“We can’t because of our allies! Arrows? What about arrows?”


“No, they don’t have any effect! Are there no spiritualists? Block the gates! The castle gates!”

“It’s broken! Fibiel is coming! The Fibiel army is coming!”

“Who can use rock wall?! Get to the front of the castle gates quick-”

As Leeha predicted, minis’ army, in their confusion, would not be able to respond properly. The fact that their number was ‘too many’ also contributed to this situation.

The most dangerous thing is the thought of who would do it even if it wasn’t me.

They couldn’t even handle 30 people, so what would happen if they break through here? The time has come to pay for their foolishness.

Kukukukuk, the rumbling sound was heard even from inside the walls. The sound of shouts could be heard along with the advance of over a million people.

“Waaaahh-!”

“W-we have to escape- everyone scrolls, uwaah, run awaaaaay-!”

That completely broke the will of the Minis army. There was no one who would waste their strength in a battle they had no chance of winning.

The siege, which should have taken at least a fortnight or longer if it was normal, was over only after 5 hours.

『You have completed the quest ‘Siege Warfare – Minis – Byulcho Special force mission-1’』

『War Contribution points earned 2,114.』

『500 additional War Contribution points have been acquired.』

‘Oh! Looks like it’s finally over.’

Leeha looked at the system notification window that appeared in front of him. He received a whopping 2,600 contribution points with just one quest. The total amount of contribution he received from the Marching Plains was less than 3,000.

‘It means that this siege was that important…. A single battle was an achievement comparable to all the field battles on the Marchich Plains.’

He was naturally the overwhelming number 1.

However, since the contribution was almost doubled in an instant, it was natural for Leeha’s mouth to drop.

‘What is the reward? Will the royal palace give me something special?


“No, a territory is fine as well.’

How much tax does Ram Hwayeon get for Dale Castle?

Leeha wasn’t sure if he could run it well as she did, but no matter how badly he manages it, huge profits will come in.

‘No matter how a territory is absurd. Hehehe, okay. Now, let’s wait a little longer.’

Leeha opened the scope’s cap.

Through the lens, he could see Minis’ NPCs walking on the wall. It’s not the time yet.

The scope moved and stopped at a point on the eastern wall of Castle Ro-Me. A small pattern painted dark gray was drawn on one stone of the dark gray fortress wall made of granite.

‘Fucking bastards, if you draw a picture using the same color as the stone, how would you even be able to find it?’

It was a hidden object that could not be found even when using the magic eye.

However, with Leeha’s persistent observation, he finally found it. That was already two days ago.

After looking at the keystone and waiting for a long time, he finally got a message from Kijung.

– Hyung!

-Oh, did the talk go well?

-Yes. we’re leaving now. I’ll share the quest.

– Okay.

『Siege Warfare – Minis – Byulcho Special force mission-2』

Description: ‘Byulcho needs to destroy the enemies’ castle defense’s keystone.. It’s Castle Ro-me this time.’

The commander-in-chief, Fibiel’s Pillar, Granville devised a plan to end the war at once. He wants to destroy his long-time rival, the Fox of the Prairie, ewin, as soon as possible.

Content: Destroy ‘Castle Ro-me’s’ keystone 2 days after that command has been given

Reward: Contribution points according to contribution on destroying the keystone, war contribution +500

Condition for Failure: Keystone remaining intact after the siege begins, Keystone restoration before the siege ends

Penalty for failure: War Contribution -3,000

– Would you like to accept?

-A day and a half from here, right?

-Yes. You just have to come slowly and destroy it. They haven’t noticed me yet.

More specific orders than last time were issued. Break the keystone in 12 hours! However, Leeha did not panic and pressed the accept button and stopped whispering for a while.

Wind direction? Wind speed? Leeha had already finished investigating that a long time ago. He already knew that it was an advancing operation that targeted the castles in succession. He already knew that the quest wouldn’t stop at the first castle, and what the next castle would be after Castle Van Cowl.

‘In other words, as soon as I accept the quest-‘ Click, Leeha pulled the trigger.

—

“Hmm?

 Did you hear that?”

“……Is it going to rain?”

Minis’ NPCs looked at the sky. They thought they heard something rumbling, but they couldn’t figure it out.

‘-That means I can destroy the keystone like this.’

The sniping distance was 1,200m. Leeha, who was laying down on the hill and using his camouflage skill to make sure he was hidden, hit the keystone accurately.

“Ack, my back, huu. Now, where is the next target? My precious little contribution points bricks~”

The area around the rocks, where there was nothing, swayed for a moment, and Leeha’s figure was revealed. He unfolded the map and checked for the third castle. He needed to move ahead, find the keystone, and secure a safe spot for his shooting.

“I’m struggling a lot like this, so it’s okay for me to be at the top contribution points, right?”

In the next 40 hours or so, castle Ro-me will fall into the hands of Fibiel as well.

-I’m going first.

-We’ll be there soon, hyung! Take care!

The advance of Fibiel’s army did not stop. Because there was a sniper who moved faster than the army and the enemy forces could fathom.

****

“Castle Van Cowl, castle Ro-Me, castle Pillas, and Castle Erona fell yesterday.”

“Huhut, it would be the capital’s turn if they get past three more castles.”

A huge x was drawn on a hologram map.

As soon as the battle of the Marching Plains ended, the advancement of the Fibiel army, which entered Minis, was visible at a glance. Starting with Castle Van Cowl, they made some good progress.

“I’m so glad you’re still able to laugh. If I wasn’t the commander-in-chief, your majesty would have decapitated the both of us right now.”

The commander-in-chief of Minis, ewin, smiled as the woman laughed. However, it wasn’t a friendly smile. With the NPC’s tone and atmosphere alone, the Dancer Chiyou, 7th in the ranking, noticed his meaning.

“Didn’t you know? It’s something you’ve been preparing to do since you retreated from the marching plains.”

“Right…… but isn’t the damage bigger and faster than we had first expected?”

“Of course, but everything is within the predicted range.”

“It’s within the expected range? How much damage?”

Ewin furrowed his eyebrows, and Chiyou smiled softly at him.

“It is he who always creates variables in Fibiel……. Isn’t it amazing that he managed to surprise us this time as well? It’s difficult for even me to find traces of him.”

“Hmmmm…”

“Don’t worry. Good news is still coming from all sides.”

“Isn’t it good news for the Fibiel army?”

“Does the commander-in-chief not trust me that much?”

“If it’s our military, I am enough to lead. However, don’t you guys have to deal with ‘this stranger’ directly? It’s only natural for me to worry like this, then.”

The fox of the prairie was dazzled. He wouldn’t have come this far if he hadn’t believed in her in the first place.

“Then what are we going to do?”

“Around midnight today at the earliest…… they will arrive.. To the northern border of Fibiel.”

Chiyou touched the continental map that appeared on the hologram.

The southwest side of Fibiel and the northeast side of Minis face each other as a border. In other words, the ‘north of Fibiel’ was a place where there was no room for interference in the war between the two countries.

Most importantly, the countries to the north of Fibiel. The Shazrashian Federation was allied to Fibiel.

“The Federation members would not be able to hit Fibiel.”

“Isn’t that limited to ‘war’? Huhut, so that’s fine. They belong to the federation but at the same time, those people have their own reasons to attack Fibiel…… no, those giants.”

“Hmm, and then what?”

“The Fibiel forces in Korea will be in chaos. They will probably use a few numbers. Some characters will react…… And at that time, the sea breeze will blow towards Fibiel. In any case, Granville, Fibiel’s Pillar, won’t immediately be able to move the legion, right?”

“That’s right. You’d think it was right before they rip our throats, but he’s not flexible enough to go back. That’s why they have been ‘lured’ to this place.”

The expression of the fox of the prairie gradually brightened.

From Minis’ defeat in the Marching Plains to the failure of their castle’s defenses.

It meant that this was not simply because of Fibiel’s outstanding abilities. In fact, it would be Fibiel’s greatest nightmare that no one saw coming.

(To be continued…)
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“Huhu, that’s right. After that, with a little time difference… it will cut off their supply lines.”

“It wont be easy. I heard that the actual lord of Castle Dale is in charge of the supply ships.”

The news of Ram Hwayeon reached Ewin, the Fox of the Prairie.

Despite his high praise, Chiyou’s expression was tranquil.

“Of course she is a great person. When it comes to negotiations and being a business acumen, in comparison, even I fall short. This supply line, which runs endlessly from inside of Fibiel, across the Marching Plains, to the depths of our country… It’s almost like art.”

Tap, tap, her hands reached somewhere the Marching Plains.

From there, her hands moved slowly toward Minis. And her hand moved to Fibiel’s supply ship at some point! She pretended to cut it.

“However, this is war, not business or art, right? I have never lost a game of cards.” (ed: Didn’t you lose like a couple of chapters ago or something?)

“Does that mean all of your ‘hidden cards’ are ready?”

“Some of the cards didn’t listen, but there’s no need to worry about our four ace cards.”

“The four ace cards…”

The fox of the prairie let out a sigh. There was a long lingering aftertaste of tension.

“That’s a good bet.”

“You’re acting like that, but you’ve already come all the way.”

“That’s only natural right. After all, am I not the commander-in-chief? You’re the only one who can hear all of these plans.”

“Huhut, that’s right. Your Excellency.”

Chiyou seductively walked in front of Ewin. (ed: Lol)

“Rather than that, wouldn’t it be better to be called General-Governor of Fibiel?”


“Uhahaha.”

“You can’t pop the champagne too quickly. We should keep our plans as secretive as possible.”

“Right, right. Then guide me until the end. If we succeed, I will be able to give you anything that you ask for.”

At Ewin’s words, Chiyou’s eyes widened.

It was from that day that the public opinion, which had been confirmed to be Fibiel’s victory, began to shake within the community and Middle Earth.

“One more shot! Just one more shot!”

“Ambush!”

The ratman was not able to avoid the aggro and swung its spear towards the tanker. The assassin aimed at the gaps between its attacks and stabbed the side of the ratman.

“I got it!”

“Phew~ Great job~ It’s a bit difficult to deal with 4 ratmen with our current strength.”

A typical party of four, consisting of a tanker, two dealers, and a healer, took a break while celebrating their accomplishment.

“When are we going to war again? When I saw the videos, I wanted to join too…”

“We can’t even get to level 100. We have no choice but to do this.”

As the assassin grumbled, the tanker exclaimed.’

“Isn’t Middle Earth too much? They should also create low-level content. It’s like the battlefield is dedicated only to high-levels or something.”

“Kek, can you make something like that in such a realistic game? It’s peaceful in this country at least. Otherwise, we wouldn’t be able to level up like this. Wouldn’t it be useless if you’re below level 150? Kidd, you can’t do what you can’t do.”

“W-what are you talking about! Call me damage dealer!”

He giggled and teased the dealer.

“If you have recovered your MP, let’s start again. I’m only pulling 3 this time-huh……?”

The other dealer who had been sitting quietly, stood up, and grabbed his composite bow. The bow, which had previously been aimed at the ratman, began to slowly descend again.


“Why?”

“What… is that?”

All of the party members turned toward the direction he was aiming at.

It was the road to the north of Fibiel. Occassionally, a horse-drawn carriage loaded with a ridiculous amount of luggage, or a mobile carriage loaded with users passed along the road. So it wouldn’t be surprising if someone ran along this road.

“Aren’t they a little…… big?”

“Besides, there were a lot of them. A guild? Where are they going?”

However, the group that was gradually getting closer had a distict characteristic. All of them were huge, and there were a lot of them.

“They look like the Shazrashian Federations giants.”

“Are there any guild wars going on right now? Why are they moving in such a hurry?”

“Maybe their just hunting-”

“Oh!! Oh!!! There, over there!”

The archer, who was about to fire an arrow at the ratman, raised his finger in surprise.

“What? W-w-why are they here?”

The giants from afar approached a group of users. They were only passing by, but the users turned gray in an instant.

They approached the horse-drawn carriage passing by the road. The wagon was completely destroyed.

The users jumped out of the carriage in a hurry. However, they were not able to avoid the giants that ran towards them like a herd of angry bulls.

“P- PK! They are indiscriminately PKing! We need to run away!!”

“Uwooh- S-s-s-scroll, I don’t have a scroll-”

“KYAAAAAAAAA!!!!”

All the users who were trying to run away froze in their seats. It was partly because of the inflicted status ailment, but also because of the name that appeared on their notification window at the same time.


“I-……”

“Igor! Agromni Igor!”

“S-s-s-s-Shazrashian- They’re from Shazrashian-”

Tugudugudugudugu, the steps of the Giants rang on the earth and came near them.

“Kyahahahaha, kill them all! Kill all of the Fibiel scum!”

Users who have reached a certain level headed to the battlefield. Igor did not have any opponent that could be a threat to him in Fibiel where only users below level 150 were roaming around.

“Swhaak-!”

With just one swing, four users died simultaneously.

Igor didn’t even look at them. The giants following him also had no interest in their low level items.

“The target is Castle Dale! I’m going to kill those fucking sons of bitches!”

“Yes, sir. Ha, cap!”

“7-! In 7 nautical miles, Kraven’s ships have appeared!”

“Adjust the angle of the cannons! Prepare to fire the cannon in 40!”

“Ready-! Ready-!”

Tang tang tang tang!

With the sound of the bell, the ships turned in a hurry. It was the collaboration of users and NPCs who handled ships. Middle Earth didn’t just entrust the annoying or hard work only to NPCs.

“This is it, who knew I had to learn how to tie the sails inside a game.”

And on the ship, Jachung was pulling the rope hard. As an office worker in reality, he had been on a ferry from Macau to Hong Kong a few times, but he had never been on a yacht, much less something like this .

“Hang in there.”

“Cough-!”

“If this was reality, I would have already vomited.” .

“W-well, it might help when I drive the president’s yacht. Since I am in charge with the galleon’s sail line, wouldn’t it be similar to the president’s yacht?”

Jachung’s words did not enter Ram Hwajung’s ears.

She had been upset since Kraven’s ships could not even get close to Fibiel’s sea from the beginning of the war.

Her attacks had been beyond their imagination.

It wasn’t just shooting something like an ice cannon.

It froze the sea between the Kraven ships and Fibiel’s ships. It was unimaginable for Kraven to run on the frozen sea and fight like a flat ground.

Kraven’s pride was that even though they were weak in land battles, they were strong in sea battles, but that shattered in front of Ram Hwajung’s ice magic, which turned even sea into land battles, they could only look on from afar.

‘Here they are again.’

There were about 10 unique battleships and about 40 galleons and frigates near the battleships. Their composition was also unchanged from the last time. The so-called Kraven’s fleet came.

‘They have to increase their numbers if they want to get near us.’

They should if they do not want to get beaten again. Ram Hwajung had a valid thought.

From Kraven’s point of view, was it necessary to simply show action for Minis? If Fibiel captures all of Minis, the next to be in danger would be Kraven.

Kraven must also be fully aware of how the war between Fibiel and Minis was going, so they had to push Fibiel strongly before Minis gets taken over. Kraven had to survive.

‘However, there’s no change.’

Contrary to everyone’s busy movements, Ram Hwajung was somewhat aware of the fact the this wasn’t their main force.

“Full speed ahead! Catch up to those Kraven barbarians! If we could narrow the distance a little, Ram Hwajung-nim will make a path for us!”

Wuooohh-!

The sails swelled as it tore through the wind. However, in terms of how to handle the ship, Kraven was definitely superior. When Fibiel’s ship approached, they moved away, and in case of a possible sneak attack, they quickly approach when Fibiel’s ships turn.

Ram Hwajung made a truly exquisite move, saying that she would freeze the sea and make a path.

“What the hell are you doing here? I hate battle of attrition, they won’t attack, but they want to bother us? What can they get from this… Hmmm?”

How many hours did it take to move like that. Jachung’s expression darkened as he untied the sail line again.

“Why?”

“……T-this!”

“What is it?”

Jachung received a whisper from someone in a hurry. Seeing his expression, Ram Hwajung felt a chill on the back of her neck as well. Why was Kraven doing useless attacks?. What is their plan while they are doing something so useless?

“C-Castle Dale is under attack! The enemies are Igor and Czar! T-the outer walls have already been pierced! The castle is currently being defended-”

“I’m going.”

It was because the second operation being conducted was not here!

Besides, if they were not in the same field, whispering and teleporting, as well as checking the location was impossible. That is also the reason why Ram Hwajung and Jachung, which were dispatched at Dike Beach, were not able to receive news from Castle Dale immediately.

“Wait! Wait- Ram Hwajung-nim! There will be a gap in Dike Beach if you leave! Castle Dale’s resistance have not been breached yet, the troops are there-”

“No. It is a force that even Knights of Dale would not be able to stop. It will be breached soon.”

“-But-……”

Jachung’s concern was also reasonable.

Ram Hwajung was the only ranker dispatched on Dike Beach. In term of number of ships and quality of operation, Fibiel could not overwhelm Kraven.

What if Ram Hwajung disappeared?

‘What if Kraven found out that we are completely vulnerable on Dike Beach?’

Jachung looked up and stared at Kraven’s ships in the distance. They were struggling with just one fleet. What if…….

‘We have no choice but to find out! No, maybe this was their plan from the very beginning! They appeared after being silent for a few days, at the same time that Castle Dale was attacked-’

Jachung’s mind began to spin. He had to make a choice. There were only a few choices that are being forced down his throat.

‘No. It isn’t the time to think. First, we need to get back to the castle to bring down Igor, strengthen our defenses, and contact the director at the same time! If we move quickly, we might be able to get back to Dike Beach before it gets attacked, so for now……

The messenger said he came here first throughout nearby Dike Beach.’

Ram Hwayeon, who was in the Marching Plain, or perhaps had already entered Minis, had not yet heard of Castle Dale being attacked. Moreover, many of Hwaheong’s forces escorted the supply, so they are all in the Marching Plains.

Without Ram Hwajung and Jachung, no matter how organized the remaining troops and Dale Knight NPCs are, they would not be enough to stop Agromni Igor and Czar.

Jachung focused on the basics.

Who is currently the closest to Castle Dale, and responsible for protecting it?.

Jachung was a citizen of Fibiel, but before that, he was the vice-guildmaster of Castle Dale. Most importantly, he was a member of the Ram Long group.

“Phew, let’s go, hwajeong-nim.”

“Yes.”

“Oh? Huh?! W-where are you going?! Ram Hwajung-nim! Jachung-nim! I-If Hwahong leaves-”

Riiip-!

However, Ram Hwajung and Jachung had already used a return scroll. They would only be able to teleport to Castle Dale once they are out of Dike Beach.

“-Really…… anyway, rankers are a problem because they are selfish. Where are they going?”

“Where did they go?”

“I don’t know. They did not say anything…”

Other users on the ship complained about the disappearance of Ram Hwajung and Jachung, but it did not last long.

Soon after, another thing to complain about, no, another thing to curse at began to appear beyong the horizon.

“K-kraven一–!!! Kraven’s fleet-! Kraven’s fleet have appeared! The number of fleets is roughly, one, two, three-” the NPC above the watchtower cried out.’

The riders in the galleon hurriedly waved flags and exchanged signals with the allies. Of course, there was only one thing that the signal contained.

『Ram Hwajung-nim, prepare to attack!』

『Kraven is approaching』

“D-damn it! Ram Hwajung’s not here, so how are we supposed to prepare?!”

(To be continued…)
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“-4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9- ……!”

The situation was unfolding exactly according to the worst case scenario that Jachung had envisioned. The number of Kraven ships over the horizon was approximately 450.

The large, elongated animal pattern drawn on the mass’ of their main ship at the forefront was a picture that no sailor could understand.

“S-s-sea serpent! ‘The serpent fleet! Kraven’s strongest fleet is aproooooaching-!”

Even after gathering all of Fibiel’s battleship on Dike Beach, they only had around 300 ships.

Hearing the NPC at the watchtower shouting, the Fibiel users were at loss for words.

“Break their barriers! Unleash your attacks!”

“Concentrate all your magic in one place! Do not use range magic, destroy their barrier with a single attack!”

At the shouts of the battalion commander users, the mages flew into the air. Siege warfare in Middle Earth did not require a separate siege weapon. Mages above a certain level each have the same effect as a de facto siege weapon.

And mages are a popular professions in almost every game.

In other words, it meant that there are now over 200,000 mages out of the over 1 million Fibiel users in front of the southern wall of Minis’ Castle Rainie.

“It’s really amazing……”

Looking at the floating mages filling the sky, Leeha couldn’thelp but let his mouth fly open.

“Don’t you think that tanks and dealers are meaningless in a war with these numbers?

“There’s just a limited amount an individual can do.”

“I know.”

Leeha and Kijung looked up at the sky. All kinds of magic poured out endlessly and shone brilliantly above their heads.

Not only elemental magic, but also magic with no attributes, even mage jobs that could only used debuffs, evil spirits or curses poured out their attack magic….


“Minis’ army will be in a mess.”

“How many people are in Castle Ranie?”

“170 thousand? 180 thousand?”

Boobooobooboooom-!

The sound of magic hitting the barrier resounded throughout the battlefield. However, the castle’s defense certainly had that much power.

Powerful enough to withstand the magic power of 200,000 mages!

“Have you finished the quest hyung?”

“Yes, I’m done. That’s why I’m here.”

Leeha answered while munching on a sandwich. The castles defense in front of them seemed to be too strong to say that his quest was already finished, but no one, including Leeha, was in a hurry.

Everyone was sitting with their legs outstretched on the grass in a posture as if they were in a movie theatre watching a 3D movie.

“Indeed……. Then the people running over there-”

“Ah! I see that they’re here now. That’s right, those are the ally who crossed over the Sentinel Mountain.”

When Tale pointed in the direction where the dust was rising, Leeha understood.

Due to the strategy of destroying the keystone several times already, the walls and gates of the Fibiel army, which advanced from the Marching Plains, were completely secured.

Therefore, the command that Leeha received this time was to hit another place.

In this siege, Fibiel forces from the Sentinel Mountains, who will finally join their allies, can break through the castle gates of Castle Ranie and enter.

“Haha, is there a riot over there?”

“Yeah. How would you feel if there’s no barrier in the north, which you thought would be there? In addition, the number of Fibiel forces that appeared out of the blue is close to 200,000. It would be quite the dilemma.”

Most importantly the vanguard leading that way was Pei Wu and Kidd.

If the Marching Plains forces were a straight forward march, the Sentinel Mountain forces moved at a speed that was close to a rapid advance. They had a momentum that could wipe out everything that was on their way.


“It will be over in an hour. Let’s go and watch.”

“Yes!”

The Byulcho Special Forces, who had been sitting in a group while eating snacks, stood up.

As expected, when the Sentinel Mountain forces joind the siege of Castle Ranier, it ended in 40 minutes.

This is because a million troops were able to rush in at once thanks to Kidd’s activities, which broke into the northern gate and smashed the southern barrier first.

“Ah, hyung, I have to take back what I said earlier.”

“What?”

“When I said that a tanker and a dealer could not exert much power.”

“Yea?’

“No matter how much I think about it, hyung is definitely the exception.”

Kijung smiled and stretched out his arms. A single individual that could exert a presence of equal to a million troops.

Only the Sniper Ha Leeha could take that title.

“Aiish- You’re making other people embarrassed.”

Leeha was embarrassed, but no one in the Byulcho Special force thought like Leeha. In fact, their party performed the best throughout the occupation of the five castles so far because of him.

“Ah, my arm hurts.”

“I get it. Let’s go.”

As Kijung grumbled, Leeha smiled and stretched out his arm.

“Clap-!”

With a high-five sound, the Byulcho Special force teleported to the Commander-in-Chief Granville’s tent.

『You have completed the quest ‘Siege Warfare – Minis – Byulcho Special force mission – 5’.』


『War contribution points earned 1,685.』

『500 additional War Contribution points have been acquired.』

“You’ve come.”

“The Byulcho Special force have returned after completing our mission.”

“Hmm, well done. Say hello. I heard you already knew each other.”

Granville smiled a little as he greeted the Byulcho Special force. Since they had already successfully completed several quests, their intimacy had risen to a certain extent.

On the side Granville where pointed to, there were a few people that the Byulcho Special force were indeed familiar with.

“Hao, Ha Leeha-nim! Have you been well?”

“Hello, Pei Wu-nim.”

As Pei Wu greeted Leeha with a hug. It wasn’t like they did not hear any news from the Sentinel Mountain Forces. Even though whisper wasn’t possible, there was a messenger that could inform the progress of the battle periodically.

Pei Wu was well aware on ‘who’ to thank that they were able to reach this place by spreading all over the country like this.

“I have heard Ha Leeha-nim’s name a lot. Thanks to you, we were able to come here safely.”

“Hey, it’s thanks to you. I know for sure that Pei Wu-nim and Hwangryong Guild must have been really active to achieve what you have…”

“No, really. It is all thanks to Ha Leeha-nim’s existence that the defense corps of this country could move so arbitrarily. They had hard time protecting the castle. I was deeply impressed by the great martial arts.”

“S-stop it. Your embarrassing me.”

Leeha waved his hands. If it was in a half-teasing tone, he would have laughed, however, it was rather difficult to deal with someone who gave genuine praise with their eyes shining brightly.

It was only after Pei Wu talked to Leeha for a long time that Kidd who was beside him, moved his hat.

“……Did you make a lot of contributions?”

“Contributions? Hehe, I collected enough. How about you Kidd? How manny did you get?”

“It’s a secret.”

And Pei Wu, next to Kidd, snorted.

From the day he heard the news that Leeha had discovered Kaztor’s lab, Kidd worked diligently to abandon the nickname ‘Sleeping’.

Of course, he was already ahead of Leeha in every aspect, including level, but Kidd couldn’t help it in this war.

Rapid fire could be used much more effectively in a group battle with a small number of people, but as Kijung and Tale thought, in a large-scale war in which an individual’s strength is inevitably weakened, it was natural that the revolver’s power was limited.

“What, then, why didn’t you ask about mine? Well, I can’t even tell you, but I probably collected three times more compared to Kidd-ssi?”

“Tsk- I have already obtained-……. No, I still won’t tell you, trying to trck me.”

“Haha, I don’t know how much you obtained, but I think I got three times more? Tell me. If you tell me how much you got, then I will tell you exactly how much more I have. Aren’t you curious? You’re curious aren’t you?”

“H hyung! You’re not some kids, right? You’re almost 30…’

When Leeha teased Kidd with an ‘ebebe’ sound, Kijung quickly stopped him.

Pei Wu, who was the biggest variable in the guild battle against Hwahong, and Kidd, who showed overwhelming skills in the Royal Palace quest. It was a little embarassing to see his hyung, whom he admired, look so childish so he tried to keep him in check.

 “Kek, okay. But I can’t help but want to make fun of Kidd when I see him.”

It was a way for Leeha to confirm their intimacy. (ed: that’s kinda cute)

Contrary to Kijung’s worried, fortunately, Kidd also understood Leeha’s feelings, so there wasn’t much of an issue.

“Now, after greeting each other, can you focus now?”

Yes!

The NPCs and users responded to the Commander-in-Chief Granville’s words at once. While he had already directly commanded 1 million troops. with the addition of Sentinel Mountains and Witchmore Riverside troops, they were now over 1.5 million.

In other words, it meant that even the division commanders who have not yet seen each other’s ways of operation and users with high contribution points were all gathered here.

“Brief.”

“Yes.”

At Granville’s words, an NPC staff came forward.

“We currently have 1.66 million troops gathered! Those arrogant Minis savages are practically on the verge of kneeling before our overwhelming power.”

Ddaak!

When he pointed to the hologram map, the movement of Minis and Fibiel were clearly revealed.

“There are only two castles left until the capital. After just two sieges, our forces will enter their capital. The only thing to note is that the Fox of the Prairie is starting to move.”

The movement of the Minis army was seen in the hologram map again. They observed the enemy forces’ formation so far.

In front of the capital, minis’ army was forming a huge formation.

“Their number is about 1.2 million. It would have been an uphill battle if our allies from the Sentinel Mountain and Witchmore Riverside had not reached here in time.”

The Marching Plains forces moved toward the capital with the shortest distance using one breaking point.

In other words, the enemies’ defense corps around the occupied castles remained intact.

If the 1.2 million people who gathered in front of the capital faced the 1 million units from the marching plains, and if the detached units from the castles scattered around Minis, and hit Fibiel’s side and rear, it meant that it would become a tiring battle.

‘Indeed……. So at this point, it is necessary to join forces. There are only two castles left, but in reality, we are about to face the final decisive battle. The fact that the commander-in-chief of the enemy forces retreated in advance was probably for the preservation of their forces.’

When he could completely encircle Fibiel’s main force in one shot. Only for that time would the retreat have begun in advance from the Marching Plains.

However, Fibiel forces were one step faster!

Allies from the surrounding areas have already arrived, and above all, Leeha’s activities made it hard for the detached units to play an active part. With their clumsy detachment, they are unable to avoid Fibiel’s eyes all over Minis.

In other words, they could get beaten if they become careless. (ed obviously they wont)

‘If the plan to encircle the enemy by luring them in is not done, it will be a fatal blow. And-’

The strategy laid out by the Fox of the prairie will turn awry.

Those in the tent had no choice but to think so at this point.

“Prepare to advance as soon as our supplies arrive.”

Yes!

Fibiel’s Pillar, Granville.

If it was one step at a time, repeating the basic tactics, there would be no one stronger than him.

According to Granville’s orders, as soon as the supply arrives, they will now move on to the final stages of the war.

After explaining the current situation of the war, the meeting, which consisted of greeting each other and refining operational plans, was quickly over.

“The Ram sisters are really amazing……

“What?”

After the meeting, Kijung sighed.

“This huge operation was only possible because of the strong support of Ram Hwayeon’s supply line. It is really crazy. Do daughters of a Chaebol family learn about such things?”

“She isn’t that strong alone. There are many people in the Ram Long group.”

“Phew. It’s amazing that we were able to fight those women.”

“Right, Kijung, you’re guild is really great. Aside from Castle Dale, other cities are being conquered by Hwahong.”

“Really? Wow…. Ah, by the way hyung.”

“Huh?”

“Will the war really end like this? With Fibiel’s victory I mean?”

“……That’s right. I’m rather worried about that too. Aren’t we getting a little too ahead of ourselves?”

At Kijung’s question, Leeha tilted his head and smiled.

The tactics of the Fox of the prairie luring them in were now somewhat understood.

And they thought that they could win through this. Then? Minis will be over!

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 249

				
Translated by: xLordFifth

Edited by: Mister-Canada

‘The fact that I didn’t get caught while carrying out the mission to destroy the keystones, is it part of the plan of the man called Fox of the prairie in order to lure us in? Maybe he thought that it was already too late, so there would be no way……? Why the hell did he do such a dangerous operation?’

What if he defended with all his strength from the beginning? Or what if he made this strategy according to his nickname, the fox of the prairie? The honest commander-in-chief of Fibiel might have fallen for his scheme.

‘As well as the whereabouts of the rankers and outsiders who have not yet participated in the war. There’s a lot of variables that we don’t know about. No matter how much I think about it, the war is already over in its current state…’

Leeha and Kijung sat next to each other and thought about the war, but again, they could not understand with only the information they had.

However, the vague anxiety felt when the end was approaching, and the anxiety beyond it, was clearly captured by Leeha’s instincts.

Should it be called bad luck, or good luck?.

It was 5 hours later that Leeha learned where his anxiety was comin from.

– Heal..

–

‘Hmm? What?’

In the dark night, he suddenly heard a sound in his mind. Leeha, who was maintaining the Black Bass, heard a whisper.

– Health…. Potion…-

“Who……? Ram Hwayeon?”

The words kept getting cut off. No, it was like someone who could not speak properly.

Was it someone from the marching plains’ forces? Is it a whisper?’

Leeha opened his friend window. The moment he thought that Ram Hwayeon’s position could be seen, her position changed.

“U-uwaaa!”

“Ha Leeha, potion- quick-”


“R-Ram Hwayeon?! What was that? What happened?”

Leeha hurriedly took out a potion from his bag and handed it to her.

Her usual neat appearance was nowhere to be found, she was covered in blood and her eyes couldn’t be seen properly.

“Healer!! Are ther any healers? Healer!! Hurry, this way!!”

It was only natural that she was acting like this, since Fibiel’s barracks had been turned upside down.

How many people reacted to Leeha’s shouting? Everyone from the Byulcho Special force, as well as Pei Wu and Kidd, followed his voice.

“Hyung! What happened?! Petyr-? Wait, Ram Hwayeon?”

“Kijung-ah! Byulcho Healer! Quick !!”

Kijung, who had come running with a shied with the thought that Petyr came and was trying to kill Leeha, could not understand the situation as he looked at the red-haired woman in Leeha’s arms.

However, he was the guild master of Byulcho. He was more accustomed to reacting fast to a new situation than trying to figure one out.

“Hamin-nim! Soo Ran-nim! Come here quickly! Abnormal status removal and healing!”

“Ram Hwayeon! Ram Hwayeon! Potion- damn it.”

Leeha hastily opened the lid and poured a potion into Ram Hwayeon’s mouth. What magic did she get hit by? Her body was stiffening.

She wasn’t able to receive the potion that Leeha gave to her properly, and she couldn’t even speak properly.

“Recovery!”

“Cure!”

“Extra heal!”

After a while, the healers came and poured out all kinds of holy magic. However, after one or two treatments, there was no improvement. (ed: so she ded then?)

“Oh my gosh……. Who the hell did she fight with? T-the condition just wont go away.”

“Oh- Me as well. I casted heal, but why is the amount of healing only this much? Ram Hwayeon, can you see me?”


The healers tilted their heads. Ram Hwayeon still didn’t answer. It was only after she got various healing magics that had cooled down thrice that she was barely able to open her mouth.

“Ram Hwayeon! Ram Hwayeon!”

“Shut up……. I can hear-”

She was only able to barely frown upon hearing Leeha’s words.

However she didn’t look annoyed. She was dwelling in regret and gratitude, some emotions in between, to the extent that, if it was in reality, tears would have welled up in her eyes.

“What is this? What happened?”

“Puha, everyone! Gather everyone, including the commander-in-chief! It was a trap!”

But that feeling was quickly erased. After drinking an entire potion, Ram Hwayeon raised her voice again.

“Trap?”

“Quick! All our supply lines have been cut off! It was a trap set up by Minis!”

It was impossible for her voice to spread all over the plain with 1.66 million people. However, it was clearly heard by most of the people near Leeha and Ram Hwayeon.

“Kijung-ah!”

“Okay, hyung!”

“Pei Wu-nim!”

“Hao! I’ll bring the corps commander from the Sentinel Mountains!”

“Biyemi-nim-”

“Kikis, I understand.”

Leeha quickly gave out instructions. It took less than 5 minutes for the Fibiel forces’ high-ranking officials and users with high contributions to gather.

Commander-in-Chief Granville frowned quietly. A dark atmosphere flowed in the large conference tent where everyone had gathered.

“W-what happened?”


The advisor unexpectedly came to Granville’s attention.

Ram Hwayeon heard his words and looked at Granville again.

The commander-in-chief still did not say anything, as if he didn’t notice, and looked at the crowd and caught a deep breath. He knew well enough what the weight of the words he had to say would be.

“The supply line has been cut-off.”

“W-what?”

“Yes?”

“The- the Marching Plains line of supply?”

Not only the NPCs but even the users murmurred. It was before the battle between 1.66 million and 1.2 million. In this situation, the cutoff of the supply line meant that various potions and food were not available anymore.

No matter how many healers they had, in the end, the one who could protect their lives would be themselves.

To fight a battle without the help of items, debuff removal, or recovery potions was just asking for them to die!

“What is this nonsense! It- it can’t be possibe. There were no enemies in the Marching Plains! There’s no military force capable of destroying the supply lines anywhere else in the country!”

The npc advisor stuttered.

Just looking at the NPCs’ faces, one could predict how difficult the battle without any supplies would be. Most importantly, there was enough reason to think that Ram Hwayeon’s words were not true.

It was because the Fibiel army, which had broken through one point in Minis, was keeping a close eye on the troops in the other Minis castles.

If several thousand or tens of thousands of soldiers had left from a certain castles in Minis, that fact would have been immediately communicated to the headquarters, and the contacts of the intelligence officers who were waiting in various places were not cut off.

Other users knew this as well.

Of course, Ram Hwayeon knew that. She nodded calmly.

“You’re right. The enemy didn’t intercept the Marching Plains supply lines from Minis. Because they came from our backs who were moving the supply.”

“From the back? Did you say from the back? What’s behind the supply line from the Marching Plains?! That’s our country! Are you saying that enemy forces appeared from Fibiel’s side? There’s no way they could have been hiding- no matter how small it was, no more than a few thousand could have been hidden. Besides, doesn’t the supply line have enough escorts?”

“That’s right. Not only the manpower of our guild, Hwahong, but also all of Dragon Knights and Seomgwang were escorting the supply line. I can’t even imagince how many there were if we included the other users of Fibiel, who were put here and there to protect the supply lines on the Marching Plains.”

“Then…”

Even the NPC advisor could read the situation. Ram Hwayeon trembled for a moment before answering.

Pheeeew…….

After someone’s long breath spread through the tent, she opened her mouth again.

“It was broken through.” (ed: I know she’s talking like this for the suspense but she could just tell them who it was already.) “……Nonse……”

Even the NPC advisor, who was getting heated up, could no longer speak.

The importance of Marching Plains supply lines was known to everyone present. As a result, the number of escorts would never be small.

Even if they were attacked, they had enough troops to survive for a while. Not just tens of thousands, but also good quality troops as well.

But what did ‘broken through’ mean? What kind of enemy, and how many troops appeared?

It felt as if the breathing of the people in the tent slowly stopped.

“How many troops had suddenly appeared?”

In the quiet tent, Leeha opened his mouth. Ram Hwayeon turned her head and looked at Leeha.

“I don’t know how to answer that. Hundreds? Thousands? Ten thousand?”

“What?”

It was an answer that Leeha could not understand, he was finally able to understand after her ‘real’ answer.

“No… should I say two?”

How can ten thousand turn into two people? The quick-witted users felt dizzy.

If they were users….

Necromancer Faust!

Ram Hwayeon nodded.

“Wait! No matter how Faust- I’ve seen it before, and it’s not like he can pull tens of thousands of troops out of nowhere! Faust-”

“That’s right, I said that because it was a force that could rival tens of thousands”

“That doesn’t make any sense! It’s not like one person-”

“I just told you. It wasn’t just one person.”

“Then? Is there anyone else like Faust?”

Ram Hwayeon did not answer. She slowly turned her head and looked toward the direction of Kijung and Byulcho Special Force. Byulcho’s guild members were able to guess the answer from her ominous gaze.

Of course, this was also the case for Leeha, who watched over the entire war.

“……Alchemist Crowley……”

Hearing Ram Hwayeon words close to lamenting, Leeha quickly unraveled what happened in Marching Plains.

“Gaeryong-nim, there’s no problem with the barriers, right? I can’t see well today because of the fog.”

“Of course! Don’t worry, I have dispatched the kids!”

“Contact me if anything happens! I will be in the back!”

“Understood!”

The guild master of the Dragon Knights answered with a bright expression. He was extremely glad that Hwahong’s guild master suggested them because he was worried that they had no place in the war.

After Ram Hwayeon left, Gaeroyong moved.

He approached a man with a totem on his side near the supply wagon and tapped him on the shoulder.

Eunchon-nim, did you get dispatched as well?”

“Oh, Gaeryong-nim. Fortunately. We also received a generous downpayment. I Hwahong have a lot of money.”

He was the guild master of Seomgwang.

One day, they were fighting Hwahong under Byulcho Alliance, but the world works in mysterious ways.

They did not think that they would get in contact with Hwahong again after doing a few missions at Castle Dale, such as escorting and perimeter control, so their joy was even greater.

“But was the Marching Plains originally this foggy?”

“I had been here once before the war, but I haven’t been here since. I don’t think it was like this when we hunted here in the past.”

The masters of both guilds talked a lot.

It was natural to thoroughly examine the supply carts that have lined up among the guild members and the huge amount of potions and scrolls loaded there.

“Well, it reminds me of the old days. The dark fairies that came out of the wasteland up there, and all that stuff was really annoying. Right?”

“I don’t feel it now, but it was really great back then. How much did we have to avoid those pesky things.”

“That’s right.”

The nearby guild members listened to the conversation of the two people. They too were immersed in their old stories.

“Slowly like this, we move materials while opening the door, taking the contribution according to the level of contribution, collecting the down payment, and after moving everything, we receive compensation for hard work. If war is always like this, I would do it again.”

“Don’t show your thoughts too much, Gaeryong-nim. Can’t you see the bodies around? How sad would these people be if they heard you?

“They won’t be able to hear me anyway.”

“Kek, that’s right. Usually, their bodies disappear after getting the dropped items, but why is it not the same here?”

“I don’t know. To show the horrors of war, maybe?”

Along with the fog over the plains of the march, there was another difference from the usual so the two guild masters were amazed..

The corpses that have turned gray did not disappear. However, no one felt it was unfortunate.

It took them a couple of hours to move the supply lines while talking like that.

As they approached the border of Minis, the fog that had spread across the Marching Plains had grown even thicker.

To be continued…
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“Gaeryong-nim, eunchon-nim! Is something wrong?”

“Ah, no. There’s no problem with the boundaries and the road ahead is fine. It’s foggy, but we can still look at the map.”

Ram Hwayeon came back again and asked a question, and an answer came right away. Because they have grasped the situation with reconnaissance and map in advance. Even if their mouth were talking lightly, they had done their jobs properly.

“What are the two guilds going to do after the war is over?”

“Us? I don’t know. Dragon Knights don’t really have a special schedule.”

Ram Hwayeon looked at the two guild masters alternately.

“That’s great! Then would you like to do one more thing with us?”

“What is it?”

“Hwahong, sooner or later will-”

Kkakakak- Dudududug-.

……Hmmm? What…… Did you guys hear that?”

Ram Hwayeon stopped talking. Eunchon and Gaeryong opened their guild windows and the friend windows at the same time to check the status of their guild members.

“There’s nothing particularlty suspicious.”

“But there was definitely a noise.”

Eunchon’s hand turned to his side. His hand gripped a totem that looked like a wooden harubang. The fog was even thicker than before.

“Conduct a thorough search around, widen the range, and shout loudly to understand the situation-”

Kuwaaaak-!

Before Gaerong could finish his command, a scream was heard from beyond the fog.


“What was that! Report, quickly!”

Gaeryong and Eunchon each held their heads and whispered quickly. What happened to whom? What was the sudden scream!?

Kkakak- Kkakakak-. Clang, clang, clang.

However, a reply did not come.

The positions of the other guards on the friend window also quickly started disappearing. Logged out due to death. It was certaine there something was happening.

“Who are you!”

Gaeryong also opened his friend window. However, the thick fog that was thick enough for you to touched it swallowed even his voice.

Dududuk, ddudukkakaka-.

“Who are you! Come out!”

Ram Hwayeon, Gaeryong, and Eunchon. Even though the three of them were close together, the fog was so thick that they were not able to see each other. It was then that someone dragging his feet shone faintly beyond the mist.

“Hmm, hmmmmm, how long have they been here? Has it been about an hour since they started breathing?”

“After all, they were players that did weird things.”

“Maybe because they were the only ones who smelled like rotting corpse? Puhaha!”

“If you don’t want to be made into one of those rotting corpses, shut up.”

“That’s what I was about to say! Damn it, if it wasn’t for that woman, I-”

Two people faintly shone in through the fog, no, one person, and one skeleton were talking to each other.

Ram Hwayeon and Eunchon knew who one of the voices belonged to.

“……Crowley?”

“Ahahaha! Right. We haven’t dealt with them yet.”

“Let’s go ahead and deal with them then. Dance, my children.”


Crowley wore sunglasses on his forehead-! The person next to him beckoned. Two sihouettes were seen through the og, and the other silhouettes began to appear around them as well.

1, 2, 3, 4, 10, 27, 37, 129, 283-

“N-Necromancer! Faust!”

“Ram Hwayeon-nim! Step back! We’ll face him! Heeeup-!”

Gaeryong raised his spear. There was a red tint on his spear and another spear made of mana was created next to the actual spear.

One, two, three, four mana spears were created in an instant and every a spear was called, Gaeryong’s arms swelled as if they would explode.

“Javelin Phantom!”

And then he slammed his arms as if in protest. The mana spears floating next to the spear pierced through the mist in an instant.

Pasasasak- Pasasasat!

Along with the sound of bones breaking, the silhouettes around them disappeared in an instant.

“You’re still moving, what happened?”

“Oh really? hasn’t it been over an hour? Did the concentration get too high?”

“Anyway……. That’s why you’re called crazy.”

“S-shut up! You don’t know the greatness of my alchemy! There can’t be anything wrong with my alchemy! Your magic must have been mixed wrong!”

Crowley yelled as Faust frowned. The two people was talking about something that seemed like nonsense.

“Who are they?”

“I have no idea. There are only two of them.”

“Are you saying that our guild members were beaten by two people? It doesn’t make any sense even if they’re rankers or outsiders-”

Was it possible? Besides, if there were only two people, Gaeryong, eunchon, and Ram Hwayeon would have a chance to win. The moment the three of them exchanged glances, eunchon’s casting ended.

“Earth’s Bless-”


『You are now in a ‘sealed’ status.』

『All skills will not activate for 10 minutes.』

“-ing! Huh?”

And a notification popped up for the three people.

Euncheon tried to stamp the totem on the ground, but his magic did not activate.

They heard the voices of Crowley and Faust, who were having a verbal spar in the distance, again.

“Kekeke, I got it! I got it! I think there’s a difference in activation time depending on the level!”

“That’s why you need to study your skill thoroughly You shamelessly got the alchemist job by mixing potions with your fist.”

“I, I don’t want to hear that from someone like you who doesn’t even properly salt the corpses!”

Eunchon’s face turned blue.

“S-surely!”

Gaeryong also tried to use his skills again, but there was no reaction.

“……This fog! This fog can-”

However, he couldn’t continue talking anymore. The movements of Gaeryong and Eunchon suddenly stopped. It was then that the necklace hanging around the neck of Ram Hwayeon glowed.

『Paralysis status has been applied.』

『You cannot move for 3 minutes.』

『Slow status have been applied.』

『All movement speed has been reduced by 40% for 5 minutes.』

“- not block your skills?,maybe, but it would even be enough to kill you? Kahahaha!”

Along with Crowley’s laughter, there was a sound of crackling, cracking, and crashing bones. There was also the sound of clashing armor.

The corpses rose, and the armor and weapons there were wearing turned into iron golems.

How many of those could the two of them handle? The two men led a large army with unknown numbers that were hidden by the fog.

Eunchon and Gaeryong sensed their end.

Ram Hwayeon also finished analyzing the situation while looking at the slowly approaching enemies.

“Gaeryong-nim, eunchon-nim! There’s no scroll to unlock the skills! We’re also paralyzed-”

Ram Hwayeon pulled out a abnormal status removal scroll and tore it on the two of them.

“Ram Hwayeon-nim? You’re mov- ah, as expected, the light from earlier was from the Guardian’s Necklace!”

The skill seal cannot be removed.

With those words, Gaeryone and Eunchon understood. They would be able to barely move, but they would not be able to use their skills. And a shaman without skills is nothing more than a burden, and Gaeryong won’t last long.

The masters of the two guilds realized who they had to protect in an instant.

“Then run away! We won’t last long!”

“Run away quickly, Ram Hwayeon-nim”

“Good luck to the both of you!”

Ram Hwayeon ran without looking back. Even if she remained, nothing would have changed. Most importantly, she knew her priorities right now.

It wasn’t just Faust or Crowley. Because she heard another whisper in the chaos. An urgent message came from a guild member who had entered the Marching Plains from Fibiel.

‘I-Igor is at Castle Dale.’

Just by hearing that, Ram Hwayeon was able to fit the puzzle together. All she could think of was that she had to tell them this information quickly.

Minis’ main ranker, Faust, teamed up with Crowley to aim for the supply that they had been ‘waiting for’. In addition, Igor invaded the northern part of Fibiel at the same time as they were defenseless.

What if this was all someone’s plan? (ed: no duh, there’s no more what if here)

‘The main forces might be in danger! I will leave the castle to Hwajung-.’

She heard the whisper from a guild member from Castle Dale.

The information should have reached her younger sister and Jachung, so Castle Dale will be left to them.

Defending the castle was important, but if this supply operation, which involved a significant portion of Hwahong, failed, she would not gain anything.

Ram Hwayeon pushed her feet toward Minis beyond the fog. Seeing the skeletons and iron golems closing in, she had no choice but to prepare herself.

“-And that was how I got here. Faust’s undead appeared from all over the place, and Crowley’s abnormal status kicked in from time to time…”

It was fortunate that she was able to use chain teleport to get to Leeha after crossing Minis’ border.

Telling the story was easy, but she had barely come this far with much difficulty because of the sacrifice of the two guild masters. If it weren’t for the two of them, Ram Hwayeon would have died in the Marching Plains.

Those who have gathered in the tent were surprised for various reasons.

Igor had attacked the north of Fibiel.

Crowley had created a potion that was able to spread fog over the vast Marching Plain, that could cause abnormal status to semi-rankers like Gaeryong and Eunchon in a wide range.

What was worse was that the two, famous for their rivalry, had worked together.

‘Also…… Castle Dale has been attacked, there’s no way Ram Hwajung would stay still. If Ram Hwajung left Dike Beach, there would be no rankers on Dike Beach. Unless there’s a particular outsider-’

“That place was also empty.”

What if Kraven launched a massive attack at this time? Leeha fet his back getting colder.

“Then what should we do? Should we turn back? It’s hard to fight without supplies”

“What if we turned back and fall into Crowley’s Mist? We might have to fight the undead and iron golems that spawns endlessly without any potions or scrolls!”

“Is there anyone behind it? Who’s giving them directions?”

“But this is too… much. In such a huge battlefield, the communication and movement between each other is not smooth, they should not be able to exchange information-”

The murmurring in the tent escalated instantly. At the word ‘information’ that came to mind, Leeha’s head flashed.

“Kijung-ah.”

“Huh?”

“Have you seen Sasuke recently?”

“No? Why are you asking all of a sudden?”

“……Nothing. It’s nothing.”

Was it wrong? Most importantly, Leeha did not know the identity of the Shinobigumi. However, what if the guild is putting its forces behind Minis this time around? Wouldn’t it be possible to establish and carry out such a large-scale information manipulation and schemes? Not to mention Sasuke, no one from the Midnight Circus had appeared yet!

What if Shinobigumi’s information gathering and manipulation, and the Midnight Circus’ mobility was combined? What if there was a person who could lead all of Minis?

‘……Am I overthinking it? Or is it really all one big scheme.’

Fibiel was robbed while the house was empty.

Crowley and Faust cut off their supplies from behind.

Leeha changed his point of view. If someone is really operating behind Minis, what would they do at this point.

‘Then what’s next? Can they take it over there next?’

Since the supply is cutoff, will they exhaust and kill the 1.66 million troops? No, it’s not a real war, it’s Middle Earth. It would be hard to go that route

In the end, they would need to hit it all at once. A serious clash wll happen in the end.

‘It means that those who have been on the defensive till now will counterattack. How? Still, one side has 1.2 million and the other has 1.66 million. Fibiel will still prevail.’

Fibiel may be destroyed by Igor, or Faust and Crowley’s forces approaching them from the Marching Plains may attack the 1.66 troops before they could devour Minis’ Capital.

Did the one behind Minis also take it into account?

As Leeha’s mind endlessly thought about strategy and tactics, a fanfare resounded in everyone’s head.

“Breaktrough- Is there no other way? Huh? What are you all looking at?”

The NPC advisor asked.

Of course, the fanfare was only heard in the heads of all ‘users’.

The NPCs could not know how the users who lost their focus and stared blankly into the air were feeling.

“……This, this. This was the reason! It was to buy time!”

“Then they were not getting pushed, did they let us push through? To get us all this way?!”

“The back is blocked- now ‘he’ is coming from the front……?”

Most users realized this by now.

Why did Minis repeatedly retreat from the Marching Plains.

What was the meaning of the enemy’s operation, which was carried out simultaneously?

This is what they were waiting for!

『Congratulations everyone! The first Maximum Level achiever had appeared.』

『Alexander, dragon Knight. Level 300, minis Country』

『Other users, please do your best not to lose!』

“.. Damn..”

Kidd pushed his hat down while barely able to say a single word.

To be continued…
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“No way, how are we able to match that?”

“So! That’s what they have been waiting for! T-there’s someone over there! Someone planning-”

“Did they know when Alexander is going to max level and waited for it? It’s not like an operator is doing the plan.”

“It’s possible to ask! When can he do it, how can he do it!”

“If you were the one asking, do you think he would answer your question? How much experience do you have, where are you hunting, and when do you think you will level? Isn’t he number 1?”

A commotion spread among the users gathered in the tent in an instant.

The NPCs, including Commander-in-Chief Granville, were taken aback by the news of an unknown user reaching max level.

“If the person asking the question is Alexander-class, wouldn’t it be possible?!”

And at the words of someone shouting, the voices of the users stopped.

“If it’s Alexander-class……is it the rankers? In Minis, there’s Petyr, Faust, and Shiyou. Faust is now on Marching Plain, and Chiyou is a Dancer, right? As far as I know, she’s also an assassination expert. The same goes for Petyr…”

“No, it’s the opposite, isn’t it? If the rankers ask, will Alexander answer? The top 10 are like rivals to each other.”

“They may have asked if it’s needed to win this war!”

“That’s right! Well, doesn’t Minis have a king or something? Asking something like an order or something like that…

“Then who? Who did that?”

“……I don’t know either.”

“W-why are you bringing things up that you don’t know and lower the morale!”

“Because! Wouldn’t it be possible to plan a strategy or do anything with that kind of assumption?”

“That’s not what I’m saying-”


The chaotic discussion began again.

In the end, the conversation went in circles and it all came back with only speculations.

What increased were more complicated and dizzying speculations, and even if we put our heads together in place, we could not come up with a clear answer.

Leeha, Kijung, and Ram Hwayeon also quietly gathered their thoughts while listening to the chaotic discussions of the gathered users.

‘These are words that make some sense. But again, it’s just a guess.’

They could not understand the situation.

It was necessary to read the enemy’s mind only with the information they had so far. The sad thing was that there was not much information given.

If they were lucky, new information would be added immediately.

If they could call it luck.

“Hurry-! It’s urgent from our country!”

Step step step-!

The tent door swung wildly and a soldier rushed in.

He was frowned upon for ignoring even basic etiquette, but looking at his expression, they didn’t seem to have the time to question such a thing.

“What is going on?”

“At Dike Beach- We have discovered Kraven’s fleet at Dike Beach! Additionally, the fleet at Kraven’s forefront is called the 9th fleet, the Serpent Fleet!”

All users who had been murmuring about Alexander’s business until recently closed their mouths.

At that time, when other users were only in a hurry to be surprised, only a few people biting their lips to the point of turning white realized the seriousness of the situation.

‘As expected…… The trio of Minis-Igor-Kraven is interconnected. No, at this level, Alexander’s level-up timing should never be dismissed as a coincidence. The guess that someone said earlier is almost certain.’

It was at that moment that they confirmed that someone had set up an operation with an information network large enough to cover the entire continent and deceive the entire Fibiel.

“……Are you sure it’s the Sea Serpent?”


“The patterns on the main sails have been checked! T-that is, what appeared on Dike Beach is the enemy’s main fle-” The messenger’s neck twitched. Leeha’s assumption was somewhat correct. There was just a bit of a drop in quality.

It was also because it was not known who was in charge of the 9th Fleet, the Serpent Fleet, that appeared.

“-‘The Second Storm’, drake! Currently, the fleet they had on Dike Beach was significantly inferior! It is said that they are rushing to create a defensive line as all the main forces who were dispatched to Dike Beach have disappeared!”

Minis and Kraven did not just exchange information. There were talented people who could move as one body even with a simple exchange of information.

“What about Hwajung?”

“T-that person. She suddenly moved to another place-”

“Ahh, are you saying that you were pushed back because Ram Hwajung wasn’t there? Was the national fleet that bad?”

Fibiel’s navy was by no means weak. However, Kraven’s navy and Commander-in-Chief leading the attack, the Second Storm, drake, were just too strong opponents.

“Besides, hwajeong must also have gone to stop the invasion of Fibiel- Phew, that’s fine. Don’t talk about it.”

“Th- that-……. Sorry.”

Ram Hwayeon was angry at the messenger. Her aura frightened the messenger.

‘The fact that Hwajung disappeared from Dike Beach means that she has returned. She would have gone to Castle Dale with Jachung.’

However, she couldn’t be assured. Most of Hwahong’s forces were annihilated by Faust and Crowley. Those who remained for the operation of the castle were smart, but their level in Middle Earth was somewhat lacking.

Would it be possible to stop Igor and Czar with the only defenses lacking in quality and quantity? If one simply looked at the ranking fight, it was a fight between the 3rd and 9th ranks.

‘She should be okay…”

The users were almost in a state of panic. What should they do? And it was not the users who would decide.

“Actually, the fox of the prairie…. is still the same.”

“What?”

Commander-in-Chief Granville whispered softly.

“I mean, it’s still the case that people gossip because they’re weak…. Heh, advisor!”


“Yes!”

“Open the map for the war situation. They will be here any minute now.”

“I understand!”

“We have to regroup right now. No, not just regroup.”

A holographic map floated in the air. And a new hologram window appeared in front of some people.

“It’s necessary to redeploy our forces.”

『Defense War – Dike Beach Campaign – Special Mission-1』

Description: ‘It’s impossible to send a large force to the enemy because the Marching Plain is blocked. Additionally, the whole army cannot turn back because Minis is in front. All we can send is you, the most elite unit. We have to stop the invasion of the Kraven Navy, especially the amphibious corps that Drake brings.’

The situation abruptly changed. Fibiel’s Pillar, Granville, seeks to stop Minis-Kraven’s combined operation.

Content: Block the landing of Kraven’s fleet for 20 days, or kill 4 Kraven Fleet admirals (0/4)

Reward: Contribution according to regional defense contribution, additional contribution +1,500

Condition for Failure: Successful landing of Kraven’s navy in Dike Beach

Penalty for failure: War contribution -5,000

– Would you like to accept??

 “Byulcho Special force, go to Dike Beach immediately and support our allies.”

Granville’s voice echoed quietly. Of course, the target was Byulcho Special force, including Leeha and Kijung.

“The ones going…… are only us?”

“It is a pity that the main unit cannot send a large number of troops.”

Granville calmly said, “Yes, you’re the only one going.”. It wasn’t like Leeha did not know his heart. Marching Plains was blocked, so they can use Sentinel Mountain or Witchmore Riverside, but they cannot send large forces there. The road was narrow and it was a detour, so it will take a long time. The most fundamental problem would be that the 1.66 million troops gathered here could not be reduced.

‘With the words ‘Minis is in front’…… As expected, Granville is planning to launch a full-scale attack.’

He knew. Now that it had become a race against time. It may be a battle of whether Fibiel’s capital or Minis’ capital would be captured first.

‘It means that Igor will be blocked by Ram Hwajung, and the entire Kraven army needs to be delayed by Byulcho Special force somehow.’

Whether Marching Plains was blocked or not, whether Alexander will come or not, it is not yet known. Does he think that there would be no problem as long as he captures Minis’ capital before that?

“H hyung……?”

Kijung made an anxious voice, but Leeha couldn’t answer. What was the best option.. How can they carry out this war most efficiently?

‘It’s a quest. Would it be fine to accept it? It just means that I have to do it.’

What if I don’t go and stay here?

Judging by Granville’s reaction, the entire Dike Beach area is sure to lose. In a situation where the commander-in-chief of Kraven Kingdom came in with the main forces directly, the navy, which lacked Fibiel’s main forces, would not be able to stop it.

If they lose like that, it would be all over. The advance from Dike Beach to Aelstock would be quick.

‘But is it really going to be a defeat like this?’

A mere contribution is meaningless.

‘If we get defeated, would the country be destroyed? Or will it lead to another story? Damn, I don’t have many choices anyway.’

Leeha knew that he could not refuse the quest. As he nodded at Kijung, Tale and Biyemi’s expressions became determined.

“Byulcho Special force will defend the entire area of Dike Beach.”

“Please.”

Seeing Leeha’s firm expression, Pei Wu briefly put a moved expression.

After that, a brief meeting was held on the reorganization of the formation, which had been stretched by the combined forces of Sentinel Mountain army and Witchmore Riverside army, and then all the operational meetings ended.

“Are you really going?”

When it was night, Ram Hwayeon asked Leeha with an anxious look.

“I have to go, so I will go.”

“You- only- you’re going to Dike Beach with only 30 people?”

“Originally, there weren’t many people in Hwahong with Ram Hwajung and Jachung, right?”

“I-it’s isn’t the same! Hwajung was originally good at wide-area attacks! But you-”

They had Biyemi, but he was not a wide-area magician as well. Rather, he should be viewed as a magician closer to being an assassin.

With the exception of a few healers, they had a completely melee-oriented party.

The performance in Naval Battles, which must be fought on a ship, is not very good.

“It’s okay. Because I already have a plan. I prepared some things just in case.”

“……Well, if it’s what you have decided, then that’s it.”

“Oh, you believe in me now? Haha, if you’re like that then I will feel comfortable and good too. Ram Hwayeon, I am worried about you. You are okay, but what about the Marching Plains supplies or Castle Dale?”

“We could negotiate with the Royal Palace again regarding supplies. Since Hwajung is there, castle Dale will be able to hold out for a while.”

She was determined to take risks from the very beginning It’s unfortunate, but Ram Hwayeon was also prepared. Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha, who was preparing, with an urgent expression on her face again. Her eyes were certainly filled with concern.

“Can you really go? There’s a high risk of encountering them to cross the Marching Plains.”

“Don’t worry. Be careful as well.”

Ram Hwayeon’s expression changed for a moment after hearing Leeha’s words, but before Leeha could even realize it, she turned her head. She didn’t want to show her face to Leeha.

“Kijung-ah! Are you ready?”

“Yes. Everything is prepared, eong-ah.”

“Okay then-”

(To be continued…)
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“-Kidd!”

“…What happened?”

“What do you mean what happened? Don’t you know what’s about to happen?”

“Isn’t Alexander coming? That’s kind of what I’m expecting. Why are you looking at me like an idiot?”

“I have a request.”

“What is it.”

“Please activate your skill.”

“What Skill?”

“Chain Teleport.”

The emergency contact network Leeha thought of. Where you can Chain Teleport between the Three Musketeers.

Of course, it was not something that could be communicated. The conversation was possible if one person moved toward another, but that was it. There was no way to go back.

“……If you activate it, Luger will also be able to teleport.”

“I know that. So don’t do it right now. You can activate it at a time when you think I should come for support, and when Luger would teleport and won’t make trouble.”

What Leeha thought of was not just using teleport directly.

He just needed to set the words in advance so that he could guess the current situation even with just the ‘state’ of the skill.

What if he knew how the situation in Minis has changed, and when Luger Teleports to Kidd, but he can’t point his gun at them?

“I see. That’s how..”

That was when Alexander appeared.


Using one skill, it has an emergency contact network and an emergency movement device that only the Three Musketeers can use.

“Then, please. This is something that only ‘we’ can do.”

“What do you see me as?”

Kidd looked in admiration for a moment, and then his pride kicked in. Even his appearance was familiar.

“I see him as a sleepyhead, but he’s a wolf. Well then, the rest of you, turn around and let’s go!”

Leeha ran towards the already-gathering Byulcho Special force.

“Byulcho Special force, move!”

“Yes!”

Leeha and the Byulcho Special force began to move away from Fibiel’s main forces which is near the capital of Minis.

Ram Hwayeon looked at her back for a moment.

“Be careful. Ha Leeha.” (ed: he’s mc he’ll be fine)

There was no need for prisoners in Middle Earth’s war.

This was specially the case for the Fibiel armies’ siege advancing towards Minis.

Those who succeed in escaping survive, and everyone else dies.

It’s the same with NPCs. Except for merchants and some NPCs who did not participate in the battle, all the NPC troops for a defense that did not escape were killed.

“Tale-hyugnim, how’s the surrounding?”

“I don’t feel anything. It appears that no one has entered the castles separately.”

The Byulcho Special force members hid behind a rock facing the occupied castle and were whispering.

“Kikis, that’s good. The rumor has not yet spread to the internet yet.”

“Yeah…… Still, we must be vigilant.”


Nevertheless, Leeha asked them to survey the surroundings thoroughly. It was because they did not know where and what kinds of traps have been put in place since the enemy’s strategy was so clever and bizarre.

“Hyung, I’m ready.”

“Alright. Let’s all lower our postures and run while being vigilant of the surroundings.”

Leeha gathered his equipment, put on his night vision, and moved forward. Thirty-one elite members ran in a row taking advantage of the darkness where the land could not be lit properly.

Their hearts were heavy. To the extent that they felt it would have been better to stay and fight in the war, and the quest they got this time was too much for them to handle.

“But can we really protect Dike Beach on our own? Ram Hwayeon was like that too, so I think our job will put us at a disadvantage.”

“I feel the same way. What can a Highlander do in naval warfare? Hmmm.”

“That’s true. Kikis, even in my days as Nguyen, I didn’t go hunting on ships. It’s hard to chase, and it’s also hard to run away. I am not able to tear off their sails with just a few poison spells.”

Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi all expressed their anxiety.

But what could they do? People that couldn’t even handle a boat are going to protect Dike Beach?

“A-aren’t we supposed to fight those Kraven bastards after they land? I don’t think it would be possible for us on a ship.”

“No! The condition for failing the quest is them landing, so how can we fight after they have already landed?”

The other members of Byulcho were all the same. Leeha was the only quiet person of the group, who were all exchanging their opinions.

“Hyung? What do you think?”

“About what?”

“Dike Beach. Do you think we can do it?”

“We should be able to.”

“Aren’t you speaking too half-heartedly?”

Kijung pursed his lips and continued.

“You’re saying that we can do it, but your not saying how.”


“Let’s go first. We only need to conquer one Minis castle and the war will be over. Tale-nim, please scan the surroundings.”

Tale was rather flustered at Leeha’s casual words. However, Leeha did not specifically say anything.

“Okay.”

Leeha’s head was already dizzy with his own thoughts.

‘The news of Alexander reaching max level…… It was probably visible to all users. Even if one didn’t see it, the rumors will have already spread throughout the community by now. Alexander is the representative user of the Minis Kingdom.

What kind of content would he do after reaching the max level? Another quest? Item farming? No, it couldn’t be something like that. (ed: doesn’t he want to travel across the sea with you? I thought that’s what you guys agreed to do)

‘That’s something to think about later. There’s content in front of us right now.’

Participation in the War.

Alexander, who has never appeared before, will appear. If everyone thinks the same, what about the other users in Minis?

‘Users who deliberately avoided the war will participate.’

With Alexander, they are sure they will win!

If there are 1.2million Minis forces in the Minis capital at the moment, it is expected that the number of troops will increase by at least 10% in the future.

If so, at least 1.3 million or more, how many defenders were hiding in the other Minis castles that have not been occupied?

‘It is around 200,000 to 300,000…. The number of non-human armies of Crowley and Faust, who have been slowly advancing through the Marching Plain’s side after cutting the supply line will probably exceed a thousand. If we consider not only only the number but also the qualitative ability, they can be regarded as more than one division.’

Then, the advantage of 1.66 million in Fibiel in an instant..

Additionally, if they get surrounded by an army with similar or greater number than the Fibiel army.

‘Granville might have already thought about it, and since he’s an NPC, he might already have information that I am not yet aware of. It is only natural to rush a full-scale attack.’

Perhaps as early as tonight or tomorrow morning, after an immediate formation adjustment, an attack will be carried out.

‘And… the enemies will be expecting it.’

That person who had made such a huge move. Whether they are user or NPC, they would be able to guess that Granville will be in a hurry.

So what will be their next move?

It will be an important turning point whether they would notice that first move and block it or not.

“There’s nothing in the surroundings. Now, just past Castle Van Cowl will be the Marching Plains.”

“What about Faust and Crowley?”

“As Ram Hwayeon said, it will be foggy…… or maybe there would be undead soldiers, but I don’t feel that kind of energy.”

“I tried mana detection, but nothing came up.”

Byulcho’s guild member helped Tale.

Leeha could also see because he had the help of Night Vision. If that was the case, it was certain that they were not around.

“Okay. Then, I will talk to you as the captain of Byulcho Special force.”

“Everyone, please gather around.”

Because it was an operation to break through the Marching Plains.

After the Byulcho Special forces gathered, everyone in Byulcho shouted as they listened to what Leeha had to say.

And the person with the loudest voice was Kijung.

“Eong-ah?! That’s crazy! No way!!”

“No, it doesn’t make any sense. What do you think of this Biyemi-nim?”

“……I think it’s possible. Kikis, no, after thinking about it, I would do the same.”

“Is that so? Biyemi-nim is thinking the same as well. Listen to me, Kijung-ah.”

“I-! Stupid hyung, I am worried about you right now! It doesn’t matter whether it’s possible or not!”

Kijung clung on to Leeha with a face that was almost crying. Because of the meaning of what his cousin said. It didn’t make any sense.

“It doesn’t matter. This is important.”

Leeha placed his hand on Kijung’s shoulder.

“Please.”

“H hyung…”

Even though the musketeer’s hands were light, what was the weight he felt? However, Kijung was also a guild master. And if Leeha said this, it meant that he was confident that he could definitely do it.

If he didn’t believe him, who will?

 “Okay. As the guild master of Byulcho, and vice-captain of the Byulcho Special force…. I will do my duty.”

Kijung nodded his head.

It was just past midnight in Middle Earth when the moon was already passing their heads.

“How is the camp maintenance?”

“It’s about 50% complete, sir.”

As Granville spoke, the NPC advisor hurriedly bowed his head.

“T-the division commanders are encouraging them, but the soldiers are still-”

“They must have felt it too suddenly. Okay.”

“Yes, sir. I’ll get to work as soon as possible.”

The NPC, who understood Granville’s meaning, hurriedly finished speaking.

“50% …”

Granville felt it regrettable, but it was as reported by the advisor. It wasn’t just the NPCs who were flustered. It was also the command like a thunderbolt on a clear sky for the users who just wanted to log out.

“What? What happened?”

“I don’t know, didn’t they say that we will attack at dawn?”

“Now? Why?”

“I don’t know as well. How would I know that.”

“Damn it, I heard that Alexander reached level 300, what if he comes?”

“Let’s try to finish it before he comes then.”

“If we log out, the rewards would not be worth it if we succeed……. What should we do?”

“We have to fight. Our commander-in-chief also has an idea, so we have to do it.”

The users also organized their items and conversed with one another It was a waste to log out, and the situation wasn’t good if they stayed.

However, setting foot on a battlefield where Alexander might come isn’t something they normally had the courage to do so.

“Don’t worry! Our Fibiel forces aren’t so weak either! Together with all of Hwangryong members, I, Pei Wu, promise to be at the forefront of the Fibiel Army!”

OHHHHH-!

“The same goes for Hwahong! After this war is over, all items will be on sale at half the price in Castle Date, so please don’t make the mistake of losing your life!”

OHHHHH-!

Fortunately, there were users who were spreading out and encouraging others.

Those who discussed the urgency of the current situation in the conference room tent, especially the famous users of Fibiel, including Pei Wu and Ram Hwayeon, encouraged the normal users.

“……If Alexander comes, Lee Jiwon will not stand still.”

“Yes?”

“No, I am talking to myself.”

Kidd pulled the brim of his hat and walked around with a smirk.

However, the waves of the words that flowed out were not weak. Because it was able to make ordinary users realize what they had forgotten. They were encouraged that way.

“T-that’s right! Lee Jiwon will come as well! It is said that he was trying to fight Alexander.”

“Isn’t it worth a try then?”

“That’s good. This time, we have to make a big contribution.”

Even at dawn, when fatigue was pouring in, Fibiel’s camp was restless. Excitement mixed with commotion and fear from various places, delivery operations for the final offensive, etc., whether they were NPCs or users, everyone was busy moving around.

“Oh, so there’s no one around Granville.”

There are some soldiers standing in front of the tent where the commander-in-chief is, but only a few regular NPC legionnaires. Pei Wu, Kidd, and Ram Hwayeon couldn’t care less about it.

Plop.

—

“Hmm?

 Is it lieutenant?”

Granville, who was looking at the map, heard the noise from the entrance of the tent and turned his head. However, he did not hear any answer.

“Advisor?”

Instead of answering, what he heard was a light breeze, and when he thought he could hear a small noise, the light magic in the tent had been put out.

“… Dispel!”

At the same time as Granville was surprised, the tent flapped.

In the faint moonlight that leaked into the tent where the light source had disappeared, there were several figures in front of the entrance. There was no need to ask if they were allies.

(To be continued…)
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Putting aside the murderous intent being felt, there has never been anyone in the Fibiel army that wore clown makeup on their face.

“Assassins! Is there no-”

“Marionette’s Soul!”

The one who stood at the forefront.

The only person not wearing a clown mask quickly raised both hands. No sound came out of Granville’s mouth, and then his fingers moved.

“Puhihihih, shogi is similar to chess! It really is! Checkmate! Checkmate! It’s over, kuuuuul-!” (ed: What does this situation have anything to do with shogi or chess?)

The other clowns followed after him.

Are these noisy people really assassins? Besides, how were they even able to get in here? Despite his many thoughts, commander-in-chief Granville did not panic. He also expected this situation.

Most importantly, he was from the dignified country of Fibel. Even after all his ways of communication were sealed off, he pulled out his sword with dignity.

Only tension without any nervousness made his face wrinkle.

“Hurry up.”

“What an old man! Did you tremble like that because you couldn’t handle an old man?

Like the girl who saw the boogeyman, did you tremble like that?”

“……If you insult Oka-san, I will not stand still. And he’s Fibiel’s commander-in-chief, he should at least be equal to a level 280 knight user.”

“Kuhuhuhuhuk, you foul, what a fool! As long as I, and the rainbow acrobat, the best of 『Midnight Circus』, are here, there will never be any problem!”

What kind of expression would the users spread across the wide Fibiel camp have if they saw them?

Sasuke, Petyr, and the assassins of Midnight Circus, people who are not easy to deal with, have already infiltrated Fibiel’s camp.

They were just waiting for this moment.


“Would you like me to do a trapeze? Huh? Or will you go through a ring of fire?”

“Kuhihihihi.”

“PPuhuhuhuhu.”

“Juggling by cutting off your neck!? How can I have the most fun with this old man? Huh? Huh? Puhihihihi!”

Petyr and the seven clowns slowly started to surround Granville. Contrary to their carefree voice, the assassins were running out of time.

They used dispel to erase any magic that might’ve existed in the tent.

They silenced Granville’s voice and sealed his skills, and used a sound-insulating scroll to prevent any sound from leaking out-.

Granville’s eyes searched the assassins quickly.

However, Sasuke’s preparations were obviously not simple. He knew exactly his level and seized the perfect opportunity to attack. His skill level was sure to exceed their own.

In other words, if Petyr and the clowns started dancing, Granville will die.

And when the commander-in-chief dies, the war would be over.

At least in this national war, the commander-in-chief of each country was as important as the king.

 “Kishishishi, all of the Rainbow Acrobats-”

S— toooooop—!

Kwaaaang-!

With the noise, the back of the tent where Granville was in was torn. Sasuke, Petyr, and the elite assassins of Midnight Circus widened their eyes in amazement.

“Haa, haa! Guardian’s Seal!” Kijung raised his shield.”

Shaaaa-…

A blue band connected to Granville, who was holding a sword, and Kijung.

“Tale-hyungnim! Biyemi-nim! And all the Byulcho members, protect the Commander-in-chief Granville!”


Yes, sir!

When the commander-in-chief dies, the war would end. At least in this national war, it was a fact for the commander-in-chief of each country.

Leeha did not overlook this point.

This was what Leeha told the Byulcho Special force when he gathered them at the edge of Minis.

“If it was me, I would definitely aim for assassination. If I were in the position of the “hidden advisor” over there.”

“What- are you writing a screenplay? Does that make sense? Hearing all the bad news, Fibiel will organize its formation all night, will Petyr and the assassins sneak in through all that chaos? It’s completely- aren’t you just imagining things?”

Kijung was justifiably angry and opposed it. (ed: Dude, why you mad chill out.)

According to Leeha’s instruction, they had to go back just in case. However, what about after the Byulcho special task has returned? How would he cross the Marching Plains alone while Crowly and Faust were there?

“It’s not just my idea I asked Kidd. He said they are in the middle of reorganizing right now.”

“That’s reasonable!”

“You have to go back quickly now. It will take you at least two hours to go back. If you leave now, you should be able to barely arrive in time.”

It was around three in the morning.

It was a time when people would feel very tired. They had to leave now, around midnight, so that they could arrive just in the nick of time.

If Petyr really was going there to ‘assassinate him’, he will surely aim for the moment when the guards are loose. Leeha believed that would definitely be the case.

‘He’s truly an expert when it came to the assassination.’

Leeha was no different from an assassin. A sniper’s job is to carry out various infiltration, and assassination operations. In a way, he had a deep understanding of Petyr.

“But if that’s the case, hyung…”

“Kijung. It’s not unusual for that person in the other camp to have thought of this. That person was the one who calculated the time of dragging out the battle on Marching Plains to this moment. They are also the person who kept the information of Igor, Kraven, and even Alexander in check. There’s no way such a guy would miss an opportunity to end the war with one assassination. Moreover, if we move now, the chance to assassinate Granville will not come-”

Kijung was not able to disagree.

“-please.”


After looking at Leeaha’s determined eyes.

‘He… He was just speculating but……even that Sasuke bastard is here.’

It was when they were rushing back while half doubting and half worrying, when they saw the lights going out in the commander-in-chief Granville’s tent, it was then that he immediately activated his skill.

‘It’s really great, Leeha hyung was right.’

Kijung grabbed his shield and looked at the faces of the assassins in front of him.

Biyemi also raised his poison-coated sword and smiled at himself.

‘Kikikis, he really is not an ordinary person.’

Even Biyemi, a former assassin, did not foresee the current situation. Only after hearing Leeha’s words did he acknowledge the possibility.

The news of Alexander reaching max level, the destruction of the supply line in the Marching Plains, and the massive invasion of the Kraven on northern Fibiel were enough to occupy the minds of all the users.

“I definitely saw you leave…”

“There was someone on our side who likes to ‘surprise ~’ people more than you”.

“It won’t go your way this time either, Petyr. Kikis, the surprise you got this time isn’t really good, is it?”

Petyr’s cheeks sank.

Kijung and the others felt the mood changed when the always-giggling guy made a serious expression.

“……Where is he?”

“He’s no longer in Minis, he might be heading towards the Marching Plains alone-”

Whispered one of the clowns to Petyr.

The marking skill was unusable, but the achievement ‘Midnight Circus’ Target’ allowed them to know his approximate location. That was the reason why they were able to pursue Leeha after getting beaten in Fibiel’s royal palace.

Even in this war, they closely monitored Leeha’s position.

“Puhihihi, really ……. That’s just like Ha Leeha-kun. Maybe he chose to make the team turn around in the end.”

His cheeks rose again

Sasuke, who was wearing a mask beside him, also made contact with Kijung, Tale, and the members of Byulcho.

He was able to cover it up, but he couldn’t deceive at least two people

“Do you think you can stop it?”

“Sasuke- you- we didn’t expect you to be here.”

Kijung gritted his teeth, barely holding back his anger.

He wanted to break the head of the person who betrayed him while playing with the whole guild right now, but he didn’t forget his ‘mission’.

The 『Guardian’s Seal』 took damage instead of the designated target.

The problem was that he could not move after the skill was activated.

“I can tell just by looking at that skill. It’s my first time seeing it. You’ve grown so much, Kay.”

“Shut up! Don’t talk like I’m a dongsaeng you know! Tale-hyungnim!!”

“Sasuke-kun!! I’ll take care of you! Fire dash.”

“Wooden Clone Technique!”

Tale’s fiery sword was ahead of Sasuke.

The sword pierced Sasuke’s stomach, but his expression did not change.

After all, the target stabbed by the sword had turned into wood.

What was worse, two more clones of Sasuke had been added.

“Soo ran! Hamin! Saldin! Kay! Roman-nim, stop the Midnight Circus with Tale-hyungnim, the rest of you will go with Biyemi-nim!”

Yes-!

Even without Leeha, the special force was around thirty.

Even with Petyr and Sasuke, it was enough to buy time against nine enemies.

“Poison Resin!”

“Puhihihihi, I won’t get hit twice!”

“You’re not my target! Kikikis!”

One clown’s clothes were soaked with the venom that Biyemi spat out in an instant. There was no way that the Byulcho Special force, who had already worked countless times in high ground and siege battles, didn’t know the meaning of that skill.

“S-shadow assault! S-Shadow -”

It sealed skills.

Biyemi can force or restrict the movement of assassins. They tried to evade the poison, but the Byulcho Special force’s members aimed at the location where they evaded to.

Unless they were a top-notch expert like Petyr, it would be hard to withstand the linked attacks between Biyemi and Byulcho. Especially in this limited space.

“Cross Cut-!”

“Cruel Bash-!”

Two swords cut the space. Even as the clowns of Rainbow Acrobats, the elite group of assassins in Midnight Circus, quickly back-tumbled and dodged, the place he was going to was by a mace.

Another clown’s claw struck the mace.

Bang-!

A loud explosive sound rang out from the tent, but this time, a claymore approached. Another clown managed to block the sword with a small dagger attached from his toes, and flew toward Biyemi’s corrosive fluid.

Tsssss–!

A murderous poison exclusively for PK that would denature as soon as it penetrates the skin.

He took an antidote from his pocket and took a quick sip, but it was already too late.

While he escaped death, he was under partial anesthesia and was only able to make unnatural movements. Another Byulcho’s sword had already hit the clown’s thigh.

The fierce battle continued, leaning against a quiet moonlight leaking through the gap in the tent that Kijung tore through.

“Kuhahaha! This is fun! Very fun!”

“……As expected, you are crazy, Petyr. Didn’t I teach you? Once the assassination failed, you have to immediately give up and run away.”

“Puhahaha, no, no! You are crazy! You! What do you know about me, nguyen! Kyaaaaa-！”

As soon as he heard Biyemi’s words, Petyr turned around. The feet of the Miyaw race, who were flexible enough to rotate their body in the air, landed on another Miyaw’s neck.

“Ku-kuheok-!”

“Puhihihi, this is noble, the nobility of the circus!”

Petyr ran to another clown and shoved his claw under his chin. He was doing a team kill which bewildered Byulcho members. Is he crazy? It was natural to be surprised.

“Did you decide to leave?”

“After I wrote ‘extra’, the ringmaster gave me permission. Kisisi.”

Only Biyemi was able to guess what it meant.

To make yourself stand out by sacrificing your own precious things. Perhaps it was in order to ‘add’ to Petyr’s life. Of course, the clowns who died at Petyr’s hands looked like they did not know about it.

“Are you ready?!”

“Done, it’s done! Today’s play is oveeeeeeeer!-

As soon as Petyr responded to Sasuke’s cry, the last clown died. There were not only two assassins left. They planned to get out before the duration of the sound-insulating scroll expired.

“Are you trying to run away!”

And Tale noticed it. It was unfortunate that Sasuke predicted that Tale would not miss that moment. They had already been together for too long.

“Thousand Shuriken! Dance!”

“Kku-waaak! Ears!”

“Don’t cover your ears and look ahead! You have to do what you can to block it-”

Swiish, swish, swish

Along with the sound that hurt the ears, countless mana shuriken poured out.

Tale’s flaming sword hit several shurikens, but the other Byulcho members had no choice but to hide the vital spots on their bodies as much as possible.

“Kyahahaha! See you next time Nguyen, no, Biyemi! And Ha Leeha and the kids!”

While Tale, Biyemi, and the Byulcho members were taking a defensive stance, thick smoke began to spread from the place where Sasuke and Biyemi once were.

(To be continued…)
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“They’re getting away! Catch them!”

“Mana! Detection Scrolls! Use all of the search scrolls!”

They quickly took it out of their bags and ripped the paper, but couldn’t find them in the mist that obstructed the flow of mana, let alone his sight.

“C-commander-in-chief-nim! Kidd! Kidd where are you!”

“There’s been an attack! The commander has been attacked!”

“Everyone, don’t move! You must stay in your position! We need to find the assassins quic-”

“Save the commander!!!”

And then the effective time for the sound isolation scroll passed, and the surrounding users and NPCs who hadn’t noticed there was something wrong with the commander-in-chief’s tent before, suddenly rushed in.

“Wah……. I can’t believe that they escaped even though Ha Leeha-nim already told me about them beforehand.”

Kijung and Tale pounded their chests with disappointment, but Biyemi already knew that he would not be able to catch them. Mixed in the mist and all the chaos, they disguised themselves as Fibiel soldiers and escaped safely.

“B-byeocho guild master? And Biyemi-nim? Where’s Ha Leeha? Where did Ha Leeha go? Why is it only you-”

Ram Hwayeon was among the people who ran hastily.

“What the hell is this?”

At the moment, it was difficult for her to understand the current situation.

“Did he arrive safely? They should have stopped it.”

Leeha was moving in the Marching Plains while crawling. They were on a different battlefield, so it was already impossible to see the location of the troops, as well as use whisper.

However, looking at the fact that the quest was not over due to the death of the commander-in-chief, he could guess that Granville didn’t die at least.

“It would’ve been better if the assassination hadn’t come in the first place, but – hey!”


He was worried about the Commander-in-Chief Granville, hiding whenever something glimmered in the thick fog that even night vision could not see through. And imagined the invisible enemy.

‘If the assassination did not happen, it means that the level of the enemy is lower than expected. However, if they came?”

Leeha expected them to be a really troublesome opponent.

In order to deal with a person with such flexible and quick movements, he would have had to remain in Minis.

It seemed that it would take a lot of time to pass through Marching Plains, far from Dike Beach.

‘Damn, when are you going?’

He also used potions and scrolls that could resist the status abnormality effect. What kind of terrible things did Crowley use to create this dreadful fog?

It’s an item with a much wider range and duration than any skill.

‘Did he make some kind of fog machine? No, no, Faust could have applied magic to Crowley’s concoctions. If you think that those two helped each other instead of just working together-’

Klang- clang- clang-.

Leeha’s thoughts stopped as he heard the footsteps of the iron golem. After that, the clicking sound of bones joining together.

Leeha immediately held his breath and stopped his body.

What did it mean to see the movement of enemies already at the point where he had just entered the Marching Plains from Minis?

‘As I expected. Those two are going straight to Minis and are trying to beat down Fibiel’s main forces from the back.’

‘I’m just glad I’m not in a hurry. Iron Golems and Skeletons would not be spread all over the Marching Plains, so it will be easier to move once I get past this point.’

‘I don’t want to deal with either one of them-’

He had night vision, so the darkness didn’t matter to him, but it was difficult to find a target in the fog. Holding back the desire to hide Crowley and Faust, Leeha proceeded carefully through the Marching Plains.

As he used abnormal status potions and scrolls, the fog began to loosen to a point where the silhouettes of the skeletons and iron golems could not be seen.

‘I have to start running now.’

The dawn was already falling and the darkness was already visible in the distance.


It took nearly an hour to enter and cross the march’s plains before midnight. However, if you only go to Fibiel, he could go to Dike Beach in a short time.

“I have to hurry.”

Leeha grabbed Black Bass and put strength into his thighs.

A soldier saluted with a puzzled face and walked out of the tent.

He had come to give a report, so he thought he would get reprimanded, but the atmosphere wasn’t as bad as he thought.

The inside of the large tent was completely empty.

Reports about the war situation and various documents were scattered around, but there were only two people inside. One of them opened his mouth.

“Didn’t you say you had four ace cards up your sleeve?”

“Yes. That’s right.”

While listening to Ewin’s question, Chiyou nodded sternly.

“And one has been torn already?”

“It wasn’t an ace. That was just a surprise joker. My real aces are alive and well, right? Everything is going smoothly”

The question was about Petyr’s failed assassination.

However, Chiyou answered as if she did not have any expectations in the first place.

“Smoothly? Hmm, the giants who entered the northern part of Fibiel seem to be having more difficulty than expected, can you really say that it is going smoothly?”

The endless reports that Ewin received were shared with Chiyou.

Agromni Igor and Czar broke through Castle Dale’s outer fortress leading to a complete defeat and massacred the surrounding users, but compared to that brutality, Fibiel’s damage could not be considered all that great.

Ram Hwajung and Jachung successfully defended and resisted while leading the few remaining guild members of HwaHong. Practically speaking, they did not succeed in even a single Castle Dale siege while leading a large number of people. As time goes on, more support will be added to the mobile forces defending within Fibiel, and they will have no choice but to back down.

“Oh my goodness, of course. They would suffice for that role. Because of this, the movement on Dike Beach became much faster. After the naval forces of Kraven land, they would arrange their formation and advance to Aelstock, don’t you think the commander-in-chief of Fibiel would be a sight to see?“

“Well, they don’t have to head to the capital, they just have to build a good defense line all over Dike Beach. It would be very unpleasant to have cancer cells in their land.”


Chiyou understood Ewin’s worries, but she still only smiled at his words.

“Hmmm……. It’s definitely worth seeing. Good. What about the ‘ace’ in the Marching Plains?”

“It’s going pretty well. In time, we will build a barricade that would not allow even a single drop of water to pass through. No, no. According to commander-in-chielf’s words-”

“Is it…… an anvil?”

“That’s right! Anvil. It will be the toughest anvil in history…. Is the hammer ready?”

Chiyou smiled with her eyes and crossed her arms with Ewin. (ed: ( ͡°  ͟ʖ ͡°) Oh?) To her strangely encouraging attitude, ewin smiled slyly.

“What would you do if I was ready? Cough, then we need to wield that hammer.”

“Huhut. Then let’s see if the ‘hammer’ is delivered?”

Chiyou took out a crystal ball and shook it.

A huge silhouette flew through the sky with its back against the sun and started to rise.

Even the fox of the prairie and commander-in-chief Ewin, looked into the crystal ball with a happy expression.

“He was already in Minis long ago. He will be here in an hour or so.”

“The Fibiel army will start running in an hour.”

“They have already run all the way here…… don’t you think it would be a little hard to run towards the Marching Plains again?”

“That’s why we have to reduce their suffering-”

Ewin unwrapped Chiyou’s arms and approached the hologram of the battlefield.

After the false defeat from the battles on Marching Plains, they have finally come to this point with the operation of the troops that subtly induced Fibiel’s army to try and break through one point.

A huge siege force at the level that virtually used the entire Minis country!

“-Isn’t it great that you wouldn’t have to run if you die?”

After all formations have been arranged, there is nothing the Fibiel army can do.

Either they die surrounded by a siege, or they get hit in the back while escaping through the path that was deliberately opened up.

“Ah, are you going to leave the marksman alone? The assassination failure can be attributed to him.”

“Hmm, are you talking about that Ha Leeha? He is pretty quick-witted. He must have already been on his way to Dike Beach by now…. Wouldn’t it take him a long time to get back from there? If he was really smart, he should have come back with his team this time instead of insisting on going to Dike Beach.”

“……Keep an eye on him.”

Chiyou’s eyes widened at Ewin’s words.

Because he shared information as soon as it came in, ewin knew all about the people who were active in Fibiel, especially pertaining to Ha Leeha.

‘I was originally interested, but why is the commander-in-chief paying attention?’

Since when was he watching Leeha?

It wasn’t just Petry who liked surprises. She also enjoyed unexpected things that exceeded her expectations.

Of course, the reason she was able to enjoy this was because she was confident that even if there was something unexpected to happen, it would eventually all move within her prediction.

“Does the fox of the prairie only care about the hunter? Uhuhuhut.”

“That’s not it.”

“Yes?”

“I experienced something like this before.”

“Before……? Who?”

Ewin’s brows furrowed slightly. He looked at the war situation for a moment, then shook his head and answered Chiyou’s question.

“20 years ago, during the Great War, there were three annoying guys in Fibiel.”

“Threatening me from places I couldn’t see or hear……. It reminds me of that damned bastard with no eyebrows.”

“Do you mean the 2nd Human-Demon war? That’s the Human Alliance and the Demon King’s-”

“Do you really think the Human Alliance was ‘united’? Tsk, tsk, you still have a long way to go if you really want to become a fox.”

They seemed to be helping each other. But inside?

It appeared that everyone was together under the pretext of breaking through the immediate crisis, but it was a time when all the countries that gathered were endlessly fighting for their own interests. Of course, there was no way Chiyou would not know that. Anyway, Middle Earth was a place where there were a lot of NPCs that acted like real humans. She just asked the NPC once to know a little more about the NPC’s settings.

“……It was fun.”

“Hmm?”

“That is why Middle Earth is so much fun. Huhut.”

Smiling even colder than Ewin, Chiyou covered the corner of her mouth with her sleeve.

*****

“Pheeew……. Is it over now?”

The thick fog was now almost gone.

Almost all the bizarre noises intermittently heard in the fog disappeared. Leeha could see that he had almost come from the Marching Plains all the way to Fibiel.

‘I now have 49 of each status resistance potion and scroll. It’s so crazy.’

Since the start of the war, Leeha had used more consumables in the Marching Plains than any time ever before. There was some that were torn just in case, but the collaboration between an Outsider and a Ranker was great.

“Ah, I see it. Alright!”

As he walked, he turned on his friend’s window and check their locations.

As the location of Shin Nara, Ram Hwajung, and Jachung could be seen, he was certain that he had entered Fibiel.

‘As expected, Nara-ssi is in the Royal Palace. Okay, then the king will be fine.”

The war will not end abruptly with the assassination of the king

It was unknown what it was now, but since Petyr and the elite of Midnight Circus had failed to assassinate Granville, there would be no room to infiltrate Fibiel directly.

‘Ram Hwajung is in Castle Dale. Is she still fighting Igor?’

He had to choose here.

He could go to Castle Dale and help Ram Hwajung to get rid of Igor first. Then, he could bring Ram Hwajung and Jachung to Dike Beach.

‘Hmmm..

But it was bound to take a long time.

Most importantly, since the Dike Beach quest was given separately, he had no time to spend elsewhere. For Leeha, who roughly guessed the enemy’s intentions, the most important thing in the future was ‘time’.

He had to hurry.

“Sorry, Ram Hwajung-ssi. But maybe next time!”

Leeha used a return scroll to go to a nearby town, and through the warp gate, he headed to a city near Dike Beach. (ed: I’m surprised he didn’t complain this time.)

When he confirmed that the position of the others had disappeared again through his friend’s window, after running across Dike Beach, Leeha discovered the large fleet that floated on the sea.

“Reinforce the side with wood! The upper deck is still far away! Reinforce the side with wood first!”

“You never know when the Serpent Fleet would appear! Surveyor! Go ahead and bring it!”

“Hwaaaak! When will the supply of gunpowder come?!”

“Who will ride the 7th ship of the 4th fleet! A battle galleon can carry two more platoons! Those who are interested, please come to the 2nd company! We’re accepting ranged dealers! And any type of magician!”

A great fleet cannot dock at the port.

Many of the boats were anchored and floating offshore, and only small supply chests were busily getting carried in and out of the port.

“Waa……. This is another battle entirely.”

Although he had seen the ships of the navy several times during the three-armed joint exercises, the feeling was different with the ships in front of Leeha. (ed: I mean he is in a game so…)

In fact, in terms of weight alone, modern ships would be bigger, but it was inevitable that medieval ships with huge sails, the smell of gunpowder and cannons felt more exciting.

‘What can I even do here……?’

It’s like the siege war. He couldn’t do anything with the quest he received from Granville right now. After receiving detailed instructions, he must secure the ship he would use to ride.

Seeing the tents and simple buildings built all over Dike Beach, Leeha immediately moved. He went to the biggest and most splendid place.

(To be continued…)
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“Stop! Who are you?”

“I came to see the commander of the naval army.”

“……State your business”

As expected. The Byulcho Special force gained some popularity across the Marching Plains and Minis, but it was a different story on Dike Beach. He also wondered if it was possible for an NPC soldier would recognize his contribution, but that didn’t seem to be the case.

‘Normally, I would have negotiated or even bullied them……. There’s no time to waste right now. Arguing with NPCs like this.’

And Leeha expected this would happen. Leeha pulled out something from his bag.

“I have come under Commander-in-Chief Granville’s command, who is currently at the front lines. My name is Ha Leeha, the captain of the Byulcho Special force dispatched to Dike Beach as reinforcement. Please tell the Naval Commander right away.”

The thing that came out was a plaque made of brass.

The shape of a giant supporting the planet was engraved on it. There was no way that the NPC guard would not know what this meant.

“Granville…… Commander- Co, co, commander-in-chief’s seal!”

The expression of the NPC guard, who was vigilant of Leeha, relaxed. And he looked between Leeha’s face and the seal. How could a guy like him have something like this? He made a weird expression. As Leeha frowned slightly, he imddeiately opened his mouth.

“I, I will guide you right away! Wait- wait a minute!”

Seeing the NPC running in a hurry, Leeha sighed.

“Should I say that it’s because the guards are strict…. Or are my clothes the problem?”

After a moment of examining his shabby clothes, the guard came running to Leeha.

“Come this way.”

Leeha followed him. Was the naval commander not in the tent? They moved to a place near the seashore and a port lined with ships.

“Commander! I brought him!”


“Hmm? Oh, ahh Did ajussi Granville- no, did the commander-in-chief send you here?”

He had a thick beard that extended from his sideburns to his chin.

The man looked like that of a drunkard in the port, scratching his chin and looking down, reaching out his hand.

“Ajussi Granville……? Uh-.”

When Leeha reached out his hand in the freezing cold, the man grabbed his hand and gave it a tight grip. Leeha could feel the power of his heavy hands as well.

“I am Burke. Even while knowing the navy’s power clearly, he still took all the manpower and wanted us to stop Kraven by ourselves, he’s clearly gone senile.”

“The commander-in-chief-nim has always been like that. Even during mock battles, they really hate us.”

“Puhahaha, it’s because you drank and peed in the tent of the commander-in-chief Granville-nim the day before!”

The admirals of Fibiel, who had a meeting with the Naval Commander Burke, were at least different from the NPCs that Leeha had seen. What even is this? Are they gangsters?

“Excuse me- I am-”

“I know, I know. It’s obvious when you see that they sent only one guy as reinforcements. Where did you come from? Kek, he’s a bit of a jerk. No, still, the smell of gunpowder is so strong that he doesn’t seem to be a newbie…….

Anyway, lets go and talk. Now, how far did you say it is?”

“The say that bastard Drake is all over the place.”

“It’s obviously a demonstration. Once, twice. Where could the main unit be hiding? How many fleets have already suffered like that? At first, there were less than half of our fleet.”

“Geez, we can’t just ignore this and find Drake’s main force, right? If we aim for the 9th fleet, then 1st and 8th fleet will storm the beach.”

“But if we go fight this way, drake could appear out of nowhere and set our tails on fire.”

“Damn it, that’s why I hate that bastard. They’re like butchers, we can’t do anything by being clever on the sea. Spit! It’s like looking at a baby drown and die.”

Leeha listened to their words carefully. Judging from the words and deeds of the naval commander, and the words of those standing next to him, this was clearly a strategy meeting.

‘This?’

However, what was with the rude tone? No, it can be this way. However, if it’s a strategy meeting, shouldn’t it be possible to recognize the operation?


They were talking non-stop, rubbing and scribbling things on the floor, rubbing them off with their feet, and redrawing them again.

“D-don’t you guys have a map for the war?”

“A Map? Ah, here it is.”

“…This?”

He thought it was graffiti. The drawings scribbled and scrubbed away with their feet. Upon closer inspection, it showed the entire sea from Dike Beach to the Kraven Sea.

‘This is the chart? Doesn’t it need precision above all else? What will they find by drawing it here?’

Leeha could not hide his surprise, but in the meantime, the admirals and naval commander held the strategy meeting as if they were fighting each other.

‘T-there’s no way I am being dragged into like this!’

Getting caught up in their pace, it felt like it would endlessly eat up their time. Leeha decided to tell them what he knew first.

“I have something to say.”

“Huh?”

“I will tell you the current situation and what orders I received when I was dispatched as a reinforcement.”

“Is a lone reinforcement really a reinforcement? Aren’t you closer to a messenger?”

Puhahahaa-!

Was it normal for the admirals to laugh and exchange jokes when the person sent by the commander-in-chief and the naval commander was talking?

Leeha had a dark expression on his face, but the person who was called the naval commander was laughing along with them.

“Kuhahaha, you bastards, be quiet! Cough, okay. Tell us. Ajussi Gran- no, what did the commander-in-chief say?”

Phew…….

Leeha thought he was lucky to have a lot of patience. If Kidd had come, they would have had wind holes between their foreheads.

Leeha slowly unraveled the state of affairs of the national war.


The Marching Plains supply lines had suddenly been cut off, the strongest force of Minis will soon attack Fibiel’s main force, and before that, Fibiel’s main force is preparing to launch an all-out attack on the capital of Minis, etc.

“Are you talking about that guy riding a dragon?”

“The Marching Plains supply lines have been intercepted and Kraven’s demonstration and invasion of northern Fibiel? Hoh.”

“Drake must have been hurt a lot, didn’t he? I can’t believe the person who likes to make strategies is a part of someone else’s strategy. Kuhaha.”

“This is nothing to laugh about!”

Burke roared and the admiral’s tumult subsided in an instant.

“……Is it true?”

“Of course. If it wasn’t true, I wouldn’t have come all the way here with this plaque.

The air around the naval commander had been easygoing until now but had changed. The war between Fibiel and Minis was real. They just had to keep the line of defense in check between Fibiel and Kraven

Therefore, the passive attitude of Burke and the admirals was to some extent unavoidable. What about the morale of the soldiers that already knew that they were not the main force?

‘But now that they know that was no longer the case? Their eyes have changed.’

Although the solemnity was still reduced due to his shabby face, at least it was immediately clear why Burke was the naval commander.

“Then there’s no time.”

“Yes. The sun has already risen……. Perhaps they have just begun to advance. It’s an urgent matter. The commander-in-chief told me to stay here for 20 days. In the meantime, I want to end the war. But in my opinion-”

“Only 20 days?”

Burke’s eyebrows twitched.

Leeha looked at the quest window again. One of the success conditions was to block Kraven’s attack here for 20 days.

“Yes.”

However, Leeha did not intend to spend 20 days here. All of this was Minis’ plans, which meant that from Minis’ perspective, Fibiel was so predictable that their main base could’ve been crushed easily.

‘In other words, there must be an army of ‘Plus Alpha’ that was unpredictable in Minis. Commander-in-Chief Granville said that I have 20 days, but I have to clean up this place and go to help the main force before that ends. What kind of persuasion did he need to do in order for them to be aware of this operation?

“Did ajussi Granville say that we only have to hold out for 20 days?”

“……Yes. Is there a problem……?”

Fortunately, the naval commander had a camaraderie that matched his position.

He was brazen enough to call one of Fibiel’s war heroes, Fibiel’s Pillar, ‘ajussi’.

And Leeha knew. That there is no one in the world faster than a brazen soldier.

“I’m going crazy. Hey! Everyone, get ready to head out! Looks like the old man is on the ropes! Get all the kids on board! The strategy will proceed as previously stated.”

Burke spat on the floor and grabbed his weapon.

“W-what are you talking about commander? And as before- are you talking about melee combat? Then, in the end-”

Asked one of the admirals. Burke yelled as he headed to the ship without looking back.

“Shut up! Don’t you know what that stubborn man meant when he said only 20 days? It’s a call to get rid of that Drake bastard and come to help! If we don’t arrive within 20 days, he will be in danger! If that man goes down, then all of Fibiel will too!”

“Yes?”

“I’ll send the rest over the sea, all aboard!! There reinforcement-kun, get on my ship! Ring the bell!

Let us depart!”

Dang dang dang dang-!

The bells rang in Dike port.

The bell that irritates people’s nerves with high and fast notes. All the personnel around them stretched their backs and moved vigorously as if an electric current flowed through them.

“We are leaaaaaaving-! Let’s depart!”

“Get on, get on!”

“Leave those who are late! Commander-nim’s general mobilization order, run! Run!!”

Seeing the unique discipline of the navy, which was different from the army, Leeha changed his impression of the Dike Beach crew.

Boats were constantly carrying soldiers and supplies, and in an instant, ships on the sea began to pop up. Suddenly, the size of the fleet was established, and the fleets gathered to form a huge formation.

Leeha admired the sight of the large ships changing directions and changing positions using only the wind and a little oar, as if they were ‘parking’.

‘Amazing. I’m so glad I didn’t choose the navy.’

Adjusting the fastening of the sail by wind and unwinding the rope, and using it to catch the wind and move the ship. Leeha was surprised to see a completely different kind of knowledge from what he knew.

Shwaaaa-!

Fibiel’s fleet advanced through the waves, and Leeha was aboard the ship in the front. The first ship of Fibiel’s Navy. The first ship of the first fleet.

It was the ship of Commander Burke’s naval battleship, ‘Sailfish’.

‘If it was compared to the Serpent, it could only be called a tuna, however…’

The name of the ship Kraven’s commander-in-chief and the name of the fleet are both ‘Serpent’. How human was a sailfish compared to a serpent that catches and crushes ships?

“Are you kidding me?”

“W-what?”

“Kek, I don’t know about anything else, but I refuse to lose in terms of speed. Drake’s storm can’t keep up with my ship. It was designed to minimize resistance. Our Fibiel’s special-”

“We only have a small number of guns, captain.”

“This, I am trying to explain something to the land guy, why are you interrupting me?! And for the time being, I told you to call me commander!”

“What do you mean? the captain of the ship is called a captain. Hahaa. If you feel dizzy, please go inside. It’s because it’s difficult to understand the symptoms of motion ‘sickness’.”

The Sailfish’s NPC Navigator has tackled Burke. It certainly didn’t feel like an army if you look at this free-spirited atmosphere.

‘Seems like there’s a separate space to relieve sea sickness. I wish they didn’t implement seasickness in the first place….’ (ed: I know this is supposed to be a gaming fantasy but that sounds like a really bad idea from a gaming dev perspective.)

Leeha nodded while listening to NPC’s ‘ship description’. Then he asked Burke, who was looking at the distant sea.

“Commander.”

“Yes?”

“What is the strategy? Tsk, what’s wrong? You’re just going to sleep.”

“Yes?”

“There’s an army of Kraven in the direction we are heading reeling. It is the ‘nominal main character’ of Kraven’s 1st Fleet to 8th Fleet. If you try to hit these guys, the 9th Fleet, the ‘substantial main hero’ hiding behind the small islands, will pop out and storm like a storm.”

I heard it when I got a report from all of Minis.

They heard it when they got the report from all Minis If Fibiel’s first fleet is the command fleet, Kraven’s 9th fleet is the command fleet.

In other words, if it was the 9th fleet of Kraven, it meant that the second storm, the Serpent Fleet led by the Serpent Ship led by drake is riding on.

‘The commander directly directs the dethatched unit. Even with only one fleet……. Should they trust the main unit? Or you can just use the main battalion as bait, and is your fleet enough?’

It was possible because Naval Power was not determined solely by the number of ships. In fact, Leeha did not know the details, but Fibiel was currently in a situation where more than three fleets, and more than 150 ships, had suffered damage

“Is this all just bait?”

(To be continued…)
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“It’s always like that.”

Because Leeha had to do it even if he knew. Moreover, the sense of distance was different on the sea than on land. It is hidden behind a small island, but the island itself cannot be seen. If that’s the case. He needed to be fast! Wouldn’t it be nice to hit it as soon as possible?

“If we deal with the enemy’s main force before the 9th Fleet arrives-”

“That won’t be possible either.”

“Why?”

“We have pretty much the same numbers. However, the performance of our cannons is not even close to being the same.”

“When it comes to the performance of the artillery…”

Leeha knew as well. Because that was what the general store owner said back in the day when he first used a musket. The Kraven Navy has excellent gunpowder. The performance of the artillery using the gunpowder would also be inevitably different than the Fibiel Navy.

“Our artillery is ‘canon’. The effective range is approximately 0.3 nautical miles. The maximum range is up to 1.6 nautical miles, but that sounds unreasonable.”

“If it’s 0.3 nautical miles, that would be 550m. The maximum range would be 3,000m. It is said that the full-scale shooting would only be possible at around 1,000m…”

Burke nodded as Leeha muttered.

“Then what about Kraven’s artillery?”

“Most of them are comparable to our artillery. However, the ships of the Kraven’s fleet admirals and their escort have ‘Culverin.”

“Culverin……. How different?”

“3 times, no, 2 times.”

“What?”

“They are 2 to 3 times more effective. Their effective range is from 1,500m to 6000m. The operation of the ship is as good as ours while having better artillery. Do you know what I mean?”

Fibiel’s attacks can’t reach, but Kraven’s does.


Kraven was trying to catch the enemy, but because of similar operating capabilities, they are unable to chase.

And in the middle of this never-ending game of hide-and-seek, the Kraven’s actual main character, a detachment unit led directly by the enemy’s commander suddenly appeared.

“-The moment the Serpent Fleet’s battleships armed with culverin comes out, our navy could only wait for death. Our bodies can only sink deep into the sea without being able to be found.”

In a simple phrase, it was a hopeless situation. Burke knew this as well.

“T-then, what are you going to do?”

That was why the admirals told Burke that it was a nonsensical strategy. Besides, they didn’t have the power until now. They were not able to deal Kraven any significant damage ever since Ram Hwajung left!

After hearing all the explanations, Leeha also thought Burke’s actions were reckless.

“……I owe that old man.”

“Yes?”

“This isn’t the time to save my life while the commander-in-chief Granville-nim is in danger.”

“Then, what…”

“Didn’t I tell you before? Hahaha.”

What did he say before? As Leeha was about to repeat Burke’s words, a sudden cry was heard from the watchtower.

“A lot of Kraven’s ships have appeared in front! It looks like an exhibit.”

“Good! Those pirate bastards will show up soon! Spread this order to the whole fleet, prepare for battle!”

“Aye, aye, sir!”

Hwa, hwaaaa-.

The movement of the ship breaking the waves became more urgent. Standing in the midst of the roaring sailors running back and forth, Leeha finally remembered Burke’s words.

‘He said that even Drake is unable to catch this ship. In other words, in terms of speed alone, this ship was the best at naval battle. And……:

What was the essence of the strategy that Leeha mentioned earlier?


‘I just need to shoot! Solo charge?!’

Leeha looked at Burke with wide cat-like eyes, and Burke was also surprised.

“Hoo, did you understand what I meant? Pretty good, right? He only sent one person, so I thought you were only sent as a messenger, but I get the sense that you will actually be a real support.”

Because he did not expect any support from the very beginning. Burke smiled and patted Leeha’s back. Leeha realized that his thoughts were correct.

“A-are you going to charge directly at Drake’s ship? All of the other ships will fight Kraven’s 1st to 8th fleet, and when the 9th fleet appears, only this ship will go to Drake-”

“All we have to do is approach them. Our sailors have pretty good swordsmanship. If we can attach ourselves to their ship, it will be our victory.”

What kind of reckless strategy was that? It couldn’t even be called a strategy. It only showed their resolve to die!

‘Why did it suddenly become so absurd- Commander-in-Chief Granville’s in danger? But it’s not like this is going to make things better even if they act like this!’

Rather, it would only make the situation worse.

What if the strategy fails and the ship that charged at the 9th fleed gets completely destroyed? What if commander Burke died?

Who will be in charge of the whole Dike Beach?

“Wait! Wait! No way! There’s no way commander-in-chief Granville would want such a strategy! Besides, there’s only one fleet over there, and it doesn’t make sense for us to charge with a single ship-”

“Isn’t this a war? We have to risk our lives. It means that you will instinctively feel that you are about to die. Should we just stand still?” (ed: Dude, it’s a war you’re supposed to win not kill yourselves. Don’t pretend this is a strategy)

“That…”

“We have to finish this quickly. Our forces must catch up on the Marching Plains. Only then can the main forces come back alive.”

Burke’s voice was low.

It made Leeha think that the fate of Fibiel’s main forces was set in stone. If all of this were Minis’ trap, he expected that it would be difficult to endure Minis’ counterattack even if Fibiel’s main force exceeded 1.6 million.

‘I knew it. It’s the same with the NPC’s calculations. I agree that he should lead the forces of Dike Beach as reinforcements. But what is the probability of success for this strategy? No matter how good the ship is, no matter how skillful the sailors were, it couldn’t possibly exceed 20%.’

Hearing Burke’s words, Leeha got impatient.

If so, the time is really tight. We can’t do this with two to three battles of attrition, or risk our lives to focus on a strategy that has less than a 20% chance of success!


“I agree with that idea.”

“What?”

“However, this strategy will not work.”

Leeha’s voice was low. Burke, who was looking at the sea, turned his head and looked at the sudden change in Leeha’s atmosphere.

“I don’t mind either. It’s the most reckless strategy I have ever thought of since I started being a sailor and until I got to this position.”

It meant that there was no way to defeat Kraven. In a situation where both quality and quantity were lacking.

Leeha looked at Burke’s face with a self-deprecating smile. He was definitely superior to other NPCs.

‘I have to save this person. We need someone like this to recapture the enemy’s back in Marching Plains.’

There would be no one to command the troops of Dike Beach if he died.

Will Leeha directly command them? There was no way the NPCs and users would listen to someone who had no position.

However, what if Burke stepped forward and commanded them in the form of a quest? Moreover, users who fought all over Dike Beach would not go against his words.

“Commander.”

“Huh?”

“Would you like to hear out my strategy?”

“Strategy? You? Do you know anything about naval warfare?”

It was different from land battles. A naval battle was one where an ordinary soldier cannot change the state of war by simply intervening. In spite of Burke’s sarcastic tone, Leeha didn’t back down, he couldn’t.

“I am the captain of a special force dispatched to Dike Beach by the commander-in-chief Granville.”

“What are you even talking about?”

“It means that I don’t know about the basics of naval battles, but I know more fundamental things. For example-”

Leeha opened the leather case he carried on his shoulder. He had been thinking about it to some extent ever since he was dispatched to this place.

It was questionable whether the environment would be ready, but Burke was enough to create that environment.

Then all that was left was him.

“-It’s the basics of war.”

Burke’s expression changed moment by moment as Leeha’s new plan flowed out from his mouth like a symphony.

In the middle of the sea, ships were gathered in an orderly manner, like parked cars. Although the waves were never weak, the ships did not get pushed back, drift sideways, or crashed into the other ships.

Maintaining the position of a large ship, was in a sense more difficult than navigating. It was impossible to do without an accurate understanding of the anchor and the sail, and the winds and waves. And Kraven Navy’s four hundred ships understood these movements.

“Fibiel’s navy is approaching, Fibiel’s navy is approaching! They can be seen with the naked eye!”

They got a call from the watchman and knew it from the beginning. However, the distance is now so close that it can be seen from Kraven’s main ship watch.

“Wind up all the anchors.”

“Understood!”

“Any other admirals?”

“There are no special contacts but all ships are moving” Kraven’s eight fleets lined up into two rows. Among them, the ships of the four fleets in the front began to move in a hurry.

“Escort ships with the flagship, forward. Concentrate on the movements of Fibiel’s naval force and prepare to turn.”

“Understood. Culverin cannon equipped front row ship forward-! Prepare to turn according to the movements of the enemy forces! Rider! Flag bearer!”

The navigator and the deck master spread the admiral’s words to all the other crew members. The flag fluttered even stronger with the sea breeze, and as promised, a movement occurred in Kraven’s fleet at the same time.

“Unfold the mast sails! Keep pace with the next ship”

“We must not lag behind the first fleet’s admiral’s ship! If we fall behind, it would be over!”

“There, there!! Pull the ropes straight! Our contributions will double with that alone!”

The Kraven users shouted out loud.

Naval battles were different from land battles. The steering of the ship was as important as giving a heal and swinging a sword.

It was a system in which the contributions were distributed based on the damage the ship one is riding to an enemy ship. Of course, they had the desire to not fall behind the other ships.

Hwaaaaa-.

The ships moved across the current.

Like a parade of soldiers, the command of Kraven’s NPC, who can match their movements without talking, was effective and the movements of Kraven were efficient.

“Culverin-equipped ships, lead deployment complete! Fibiel’s movement is-”

“There it is! Fibiel’s fleet is turning right! They are turning right! Their entire fleet is turning to the right! Estimated angle, 10 degrees! The current distance is 5 nautical miles”

Flap- flap-!

A shout was heard from the watchtower, waving flags.

“Prepare a portion of the lead ships. Match Fibiel’s movements. Begin loading the culverins.”

“Aye, aye, sir!”

At the admiral NPCs’ command, users rushed again.

For users who go out to ‘raid’ using ships, it was not a particularly special command.

“Port, ready! Steering direction 350! Turn so that Fibiel could see the port side”

“Port ready, port ready!”

“Be careful not to overturn the sails”

“He’s only going to beat me by 10 degrees, but I’m afraid I won’t get the wind? Don’t worry, take good care of steering!”

The helmsman user and the users near the mass spat out swear words at each other. Still, their actions did not stop.

The ship did not turn simply by turning the key. A ship was not a car.

The sail must be maintained at all times to receive the wind in the direction it needs to go. If the rudder control and sail control are different from each other, the wind may reverse and the sail might overturn.

It meant that the wind can block the front rather than push it from behind.

It took a lot of time until the sails once flipped over to normalize again, so it was only natural for the Kraven users to exchange sharp sounds.

“Port!”

Port!

Shupaaa-!

Kraven’s ships started to turn their heads to the left at the same time. Although the sea breeze was strong, it only turned 10 degrees, and there was no frivolous sailor who overturned the sail at this level.

As soon as the ships in the front row moved, the ships in the back row chased after them.

They also did not make a single mistake.

“Culverin load! Culverin reload! Open the left side gun gate! Measure the distance-!”

“Measure the distance! We are 4.5 nautical miles away from Qidian!”

“Okay, ready to reload! Get the gunpowder out! Prepare to fire, once we are 3 nautical miles away, you’ll get an order to fire the first shot!” Currently, the distance between the Fibiel and Kraven fleets is about 8.3 km.

It will be approximately 3-4km ahead of Fibiel’s fleet advancing with their heads turned to the right and Kraven’s fleets moving with their heads turned to the left to begin in earnest.

First, Kraven’s Navy, who will open fire by showing his side, and Fibiel’s, who must somehow break through the navy’s gunfire

Of course, from Kraven’s point of view, there was no way to welcome such a thing.

When Fibiel approached a certain distance, they have to open fire again and chase after them.

Then what about Fibiel?

They would get angry at Kraven, who runs away, but they couldn’t chase them forever. Because they did not know when Drake would pop out of nowhere.

Besides, fighting to the death was not a disadvantage.

Fibiel always rages about them being ignorant Kraven bastards and pirates, but when it comes to ‘ships’, Kraven is better than them. As such, they have a great attachment to their ‘ships’. It meant a high level of understanding.

(To be continued…)
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“Hoho, why aren’t those bastards playing today?”

“Right. Isn’t this crazy? Did they come here knowing that they’re going to die?”

“Leave it alone. It’s going well. We’re going to make a full-scale attack today, so it’s better that Fibiel came on their own.”

“Right, right. It’s annoying that it gets cramped when we get on land. They’re not planning to have a close-up battle are they?”

“They don’t have Ram Hwajung to back them up so that shouldn’t be the case. For now, they are getting closer to us.”

The users on the deck looked at Fibiel’s fleet getting close to them. 4 nautical miles, 3.7 nautical miles, 3.5 nautical miles…….

“Are they really coming?”

“Hey, do they really want to fight like this?”

The Kraven users were puzzled. Are they really going to proceed with their plan knowing that they were going to lose? The voice of Kraven’s NPC Admiral spead softly among the users.

“Ready to fire the first shot.”

“Ready to fire the first shooooot-!”

“Put the gunpowder! Get ready! Get ready to fire!”

“Enchant! There might be shielding on the ship!”

“Move quickly!”

There was a gap in the movement between the Kraven users and the NPCs, and Fibiel forces finally moved.

“The Fibiel navy, make a quick turn! Hard Starboard Estimation! Estimated Starboard rout 80 degrees!”

“Admiral! The Fibiel army crossed the Culverin’s range-”

“It’s too late. It’s already too late to run away now! The leading fleet, pursue the Fibiel forces! Starboard 10 degrees! Pursue the enemy from 90 degrees direction! Starboard ready! Contact commander Drake! They can ambush the enemy while we are holding them back!”


“Understood! Boatswaiiiiiin-! Starboard! Starboard! Ready!”

“Ay, ay, sir!”

When Fibiel’s fleet made a sharp turn in an almost A-shape, they inevitably slowed down. What if Kraven narrowed the distance and attacked the players to port again? Fibiel’s ship, which was slow to propel, would not be able to get out of the Culverin’s range!

“Huh? Ohh? There- that, navigator-nim!”

The user positioned in the watchtower tilted his head.

“What is it?! What are they doing?”

“I think there’s a ship coming out of Fibiel over there? No, it’s slightly left.”

“Huh?”

“A ship……. I think they made a port turn rather than a starboard turn.”

“What are you talking about?”

The navigator player looked at the distant sea. Indeed, when all of Fibiel’s fleet made a sharp turn and turned to the right, a ship suddenly turned to the left.

“Huh? What are they doing?”

It was a particularly thin and slender boat compared to the other ships.

“What should we do?”

“……For now, let’s contact the fleet behind us. We just have to listen to what the admiral says.”

“Okay, understood.”

“Continue to observe the main unit.”

“Yes!”

The watchtower user and the navigator user nodded their heads. Just like that, they had no time to pay attention to such a crazy ship with inexperienced navigators when everything is about to ‘end’ in Dike Beach.

“It’s coming! Kraven’s Battle Fleet Starboard in action! They are trying to catch the main forces from behind!”


“What is their speed? Navigator! What is their speed?”

“E-even if there’s wind- We still need more time!”

“They are approaching rapidly! The distance is rapidly decreasing!”

“A-admiral!”

Hearing the shouts of users and NPCs, the navigator approached the admiral of Fibiel’s second fleet. But the admiral only shook his head, clenching his teeth until his gums bled.

“We have to go this way.”

“B-but they will catch up! Even if we barely escape this time, how many times will we have to do this in the future-”

“This is the strategy the commander risked his life for. Are you afraid when we are within so many fleets?”

“T-thats, no…”

****

“Me too.”

“Yes?”

“It’s annoying that I can’t be the spearhead of this strategy that required to risk the commander’s life.”

The 2nd fleet admiral squeezed his voice as if he was about to spit out blood.

As Leeha had already observed, the admirals and the commander of Fibiel’s navy were close to each other.

It could be said that Naval Commander Burke’s popularity was high.

Therefore, the NPC admirals were compelled to agree to this operation that endangered Burke, and they could only lament that their strength was weaker than Kraven’s.

“Kraven ahead-! The fleet equipped with Culverine is breaking port! The distance is 3.1, no, 3.2 nautical miles-!”

“It’s coming! The enemy’s first shot is coming! Ready your maneuvers to dodge! Helmsman!”

“Ready!”


“Evasive-”

Boom, boom, boo, boo, boom-! Far away in the sea where the sound of waves, the sea breeze, and all kinds of shouts to stir the ships are raging.

The lightest but heaviest noise was heard in the ears of the Fibiel Navy.

“-Boooong! Evasive maneuver!”

“It’s hide-and-seek with our lives on the line from now on! If we survive until sunset today, it’s our victory! Tell this to all the ships of the 1st and 2nd fleet!”

“What should I tell them admiral!”

“Survive! Carry out starboard!”

Starboooooooard!

Hwaaaaa-

At the command of the admiral, the helmsman broke the rudder to starboard.

The whistling sound of the devil of the sea tickled their ears in an instant.

Baaang, baaaang, baaang!

“Uwaaah!”

Huge cannonballs flew in the sky and fell near the Fibiel ships, creating a huge shock wave.

“Don’t be afraid, do what you have to do! It’s the maximum range anyway, so the accuracy is low!”

It was just that. The first shot was from 6,000m away, which was the Culverin’s maximum range.

Although there were about 300 Fibiel ships, only two or three were hit. Only a part of the upper decks was damaged.

It wasn’t the cannons that frightened the Fibiel naval forces.

It was the fact that they have already reached the ‘shooting range’. And once they start the running race, it would be hard to get rid of the Kraven ships. If it was actually like that?

“Get ready for the second shot! It’s going to get real from now on! You must get out of the way!”

“You have to speed up before the second shot comes! Mass, tie the mass rope!”

They will see real hell soon enough.

The admiral of the 2nd fleet, who was entrusted to command the 1st fleet in the place of commander Burke, watched as a ship moved away.

A ship as thin but as fast as a sailfish.

“Commander-nim…”

“Wah, this is amazing……. You got it right again.”

“That’s what I said. Those ignorant bastards shoot artillery out of instinct. Even at a distance that cannot be calculated, it is like that.”

The one ship that separated was Burke’s ship, the Sailfish. Leeha admired Kraven’s artillery fire from the stern of the ship

‘At 6,000m, no matter how many times they shoot, will they be able to hit anything?’

The most important thing was to measure the distance and angle. The first shot wasn’t about shooting to hit.

‘Is there any achievement for that? No, in the first place, you have to aim and shoot at a specific individual target to get acknowledged, why wouldn’t they consider shooting at a group of soldiers like that as an achievement? Anyway, this is great.’ In the midst of that, Leeha once again admired the capabilities of the Kraven Navy while thinking about his achievements.

‘Cough, I have made a very dangerous strategy.’ Leeha thought…… He regretted it a little, thinking that he might have made a huge mistake.

 “So, what about you?”

“Yes?”

“Can you do it?”

“Of course. As the commander said

……. Because we can only do it today, while there’s a knife at our neck.”

“It’s crazy. I agreed to it- but this is still too crazy.”

“You wanted to do something even crazier.”

“Hmm.”

Burke couldn’t help but nod his head. Comparing Drake’s fleet to Kraven’s most powerful fleet, it’s clear that their first plan was bound to fail.

“The rear fleet has found us! A few galleons are heading towards us!”

“It’s okay if it’s a galleon, they only have a cannon anyway.”

“Did you say that Culverin is only in battleships?”

“It’s Kraven’s precious pony. They could not supply it to ordinary fleets and can only put it on the Admiral’s ships and the Admiral’s escort ships.”

“That’s great. Go closer!” Leeha shouted. The navigator took turns between looking at Burke and Leeha.

“G-get closer?”

“Yep! Approach them with caution. Most importantly, full speed ahead.”

“Understood! Full speed ahead! Full speed ahead!”

At the navigator’s words, the Sailfish accelerated. The acceleration was fast enough to make Leeha stumble for a moment.

The fact that the Sailfish could achieve this level of acceleration was a testament to the ability of the Sailfish and its crew to handle the vessel.

“The enemy galleon has increased its speed! It is turning toward the main ship!”

“Distance?”

“About 4 nautical miles!”

“Which fleet?”

“Checking the flag- Two morning stars crossed! It is Kraven’s 3rd Fleet!”

Burke nodded as he heard the voice from the watchtower.

“Good.”

“Is that good?”

“He is the most ignorant and inflexible guy of the Kraven pirates. All he knows is to do what he had learned.”

“Then…”

“He must have forgotten Drake’s instructions already. That guy must be thinking ‘Don’t let the enemy catch you from the back’.”

Burke chuckled. Leeha listened to his words as he put a bullet into the Black Bass.

“It sounds like he’s the perfect first target.”

“Isn’t it the type of idiot who dies in the war first.”

“I’ll get ready.”

“Then we’re going in.”

“Yes.”

Leeha went next to the player and took a seat, then looked to the right.

When he leaned his upper body a little in front of the ship, there was nothing but an open sea. There were no covers like trees or rocks in the sea. There was no terrain or elevation.

In other words, you could see the limits of your vision. At the far right of the Sailfish, Kraven’s fleet was advancing. Where Fibiel’s ship is running away, and the Kraven’s ships chasing after them.

During the movement of the Kraven ships lined up in two rows, only a few ships of the fleet closest to the view from the starboard of the sailfish on the far right of the back row, based on the direction of movement, are concerned about this.

Even Kraven knew that if a ship caught up to them from behind, it wouldn’t do any damage. They were also confident that a ship from about 4 nautical miles away would not be able to catch up to them.

‘In other words, we have to make use of that carelessness. Drake isn’t the enemy right now. Just the normal admirals. Just as there’s a time difference between Burke and his admirals, there should be a time difference in Kraven as well.’

Leeha wrapped a lifeline around his waist and carefully sat down.

When he turned his head to look at Burke, the captain of the Sailfish and Fibiel’s naval commander, he was approaching the helm.

“I will steer.”

“T-the commander-in-chief will pilot directly?”

“That’s right. You need to be a madman to do crazy things.”

He couldn’t deny it anyway. The helmsman immediately gave way to Burke. Burke grabbed the helm of the Sailfish that was bigger than him.

“Kuhaha! Okay, the handle is nice, it feels very good to steer! Everyone, hard starboard!”

“H-Hard Starboard……?”

“I won’t say it twice from now on! Anyone who repeats my instruction will get summary judgement!”

The captain and naval commander. There was no one who spoke or objected to that single cry.

If a country has a king, and a ship has a captain. Then his words were the law. The sailors started running around with pale faces.

“Hard Starboard ready-! You have to make a sharp turn to starboard!”

“Mass, get the mass first! It should be windy!”

The waterline is shallow now! Be especially careful sailors!

There was tension among the sailors. Hard starboard? With this wind and speed, they were making a sharp turn! The sail will overturn!

Besides, they can’t steer the sails as they normally would. Throwing a lot of things for speed, the ship was not fully submerged in the water. If they steered sharply, the ship may topple over rather than overturn the sail.

(To be continued…)
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Creak, creak, creak.

Not only the NPCs, but also the users could not understand what was going on. No, they didn’t have time to understand. Because they had to focus all their attention on steering the ship. The moment the steering and the sail lost focus, the Sailfish ship would be doomed to sink.

At that point when Leeha felt the people’s tension, burke opened his mouth.

“Start! Hard Starboard-! U-string 100 degrees!”

U-strung 100 degrees! A quick turn!

Creeeeeeeeaak-!

The sails fluttered sharply. Although the mast creaked to the point of howling, burke was indeed the commander of the navy’s ship.

“Waaaaah!”

Exquisite skills in tying and untying ropes!

Their efforts to ensure that the sails never overturned were passed on to the ship.

Of course, it came from the desperation that if the sails overturned, they would die before gaining speed again.

“Cough! I-I think I can feel my stomach coming up!”

And Leeha felt it with his ‘whole body’.

Even with the lifeline wrapped around him, he received the force of gravity so intense he could barely stand. If the ropes had not been wound, he would have been thrown off the boat.

For a moment, as it literally felt like one side of the ship was lifted, the Sailfish suddenly changed direction and moved forward.

“Great, did anyone get thrown off?”

“I think the navigator did?”

“KUhahaha, of course not!”


Burke laughed as the navigator laughed.

The quick turn was successful. It was close but no one died! Thanks to this, Kraven’s large fleet, which was located on the starboard of Sailfish, was now directly in front of them.

“There, won-kun!”

“Yes?”

“You know what you’re looking for?”

Leeha did not answer. He sat back down and slowly laid himself back on the bow. After placing the Black Bass on the bipod and fixing it firmly, he opened the scope cap and put his eye on the scope.

“You just told me, but in case you think I forgot. Its the largest battleship among the enemy fleet, and its flagship has the most colorful sails!”

“That’s right! So do you recognize the flagship of the 3rd Fleet Kraven?”

Beyond a few galleons toward the Sailfish, a large ship was visible.

Among the many ships with over 50 artillery on one side, Leeha found a ship, almost the size of a building, Leeha found a ship that was painted with two crossed morning stars that was painted colorfully.

“I see it!”

“Then what should you do?”

“Find the most glamorous person on the flagship! His estimated location is the upper deck near the quay!”

Hearing Leeha’s words, burke nodded..

“Hahaha, good! Watchtower-! Distance-！”

“2, 2.2 nautical miles from the current enemy galleon! About 3 nautical miles from the battleship! We are already in the maximum range of culverin!”

About 5km from the front line was the flagship of the enemy fleet. With a maximum range of 6km, the culverin of the enemy ships could shoot at them at any time.

“It’s okay! As long as the galleons are facing this way, that ignorant bastard can’t fire his guns recklessly! Get closer!”

The Sailfish approached head-on toward Kraven’s 3rd fleet. In the distance between the 3rd fleet and the sailfish, there were several galleons of the 3rd fleet that had already turned and approached them.

The distance from the galleons was about 4km.


Even if he hadn’t heard Burke, the NPC in the watchtower knew, but that wasn’t the only problem.

“If you go another half nautical miles, we will enter the maximum range of the galleon’s cannon!”

“It’s okay! Won-kun! How much close do I have to go?”

If they went a little further, the galleons between the battleships and the Sailfish will also turn. And they might open their side artillery gates and fire their cannon wildly.

Hearing Burke’s cry, leeeha did not shout.

At the end of the scope, it was about 5 minutes later that he was able to barely find his target.

“I think it should go as far as 0.7 nautical miles, but…… First, please go to the 1 nautical mile from the enemy ship”

“Good! Approach the galleon 1 nautical mile away!”

“We will soon be 1 nautical mile away from the galleon!”

Burke’s cry and the watchtower’s call were exchanged. Across those excited voices, Leeha was heard again.

“No, not the distance from the galleon. It’s 1 nautical distance from the ship.”

“What?”

“What?”

The noise in the Sailfish had subsided enough to hear Leeha’s calm voice.

“I want you to go 1 nautical mile from the enemy flagship.”

“……Do you know what that means?”

There was a galleon between the enemy flagship and the Sailfish. If the distance to the flagship is reduced to 1 nautical mile, what would their distance to the galleon be?

Leeha nodded his head and answered calmly.

“Of course.”

“C-commander-nim! No matter how-”


“Watchtower! I will spare you only once! I told you not to spout nonsense!”

Burke roared and the watchtower became silent. Even Burke, who held the helm, took a deep breath.

“That’s crazy.”

“You already said it before. But yes, it is crazy.”

“Good. I have the crazy helm, so I have to be properly crazy right now. Closing to Kraven’s 3rd Fleet’s flagship! Brace yourselves!”

Burke shouted. The unfortunate thing was that beyond that sound, dong, dong, dong, a small sound of drumming could be heard.

“The enemy is shooooooooting-!”

It was the shelling of the Kraven fleet.

Chwaaaak, chwaaaak-!

The gushing sea water soaked Leeha’s body. However, he did not avoid it. Just like the figure of a bow on a ship’s bow, he kept his face flat and looked forward.

“This is a Culverin fire from an enemy battleship! The ships of Kraven’s 3rd fleet are slowing down! We are expecting them to turn towards us!”

“Kahaaaat! Isn’t it fun? Dodge well! No one wants to die during the craziest naval battle in history, right?”

There was a cry to change direction, but Burke lightly ignored it.

“The enemy galleon is turning! The current distance is 1.8 nautical miles! As soon as the enemies turn around, they will enter the maximum range of the artillery!”

“Ignore them! It’s not a Culverin, and the Sailfish is not slow enough to get hit by a cannon! Booooom! Predict the point of shelling!”

“Do you think I have supernatural powers? I don’t know when they’re going to shoot.”

“Quiet down! Just do it when I tell you to!”

The only NPC that could fight Burke in the Sailfish grumbled and stepped forward.

The navigator who was watching the galleon turn looked at Leeha who was in the bow.

“Hmm, at this angle…. And they must have calculated our speed…”

1.7 nautical miles from the galleon! The cannon’s maximum range has been reached!

Hearing the cry from the watchtower, the navigator nodded.

“They will shoot when it narrows down by 0.2 nautical miles.”

“Watchtower! Did you hear that?! Port! Ready! After evading in the direction of 345 degrees, we will restore it to its original slate!”

Ay, ay, sir!

Chwaaaa, chwaaaa-.

Riding on the waves, the Sailfish cut through the sea. 0.2 nautical miles was about 370m. In the sea, the distance could be narrowed in an instant.

“The distance from the galeon is 1.5 nautical miles!”

“Port-!”

Creeeaaaaak——…….

The bow must be turned 15 degrees to the left. As soon as Burke turned the helm, shouts echoed from the galleon.

‘Amazing. Can he tell because he’s an NPC? Can users do that too?’

If you are someone who can be the ‘chief navigator’ on the naval commander’s flagship, that was enough for you to become an admiral if you had a little bit of greed. Leeha was in awe at the unmistakable timing of the shelling that was predicted.

“Captain, we will be shooting at the battleship soon.”

“ETA?”

“I don’t know, I think I’ll be timing Gallion’s canon next time……. Can you avoid that?”

“Shut up and tell me the time!”

“In about a minute, all the artillery will come from the battleships and galleons. May the Mother of the Sea protect us.”

The navigator recited a chant He had a voice so heavy that even Burke gulped.

There were about 50 battleships from Kraven’s 3rd fleet that faced the Sailfish’s port side. If all the ‘artillery’‘ came flying, how many shots would there be? There were 50 artilleries per ship…….

“Reinforcement-kun! Are you listening?!”

“Yes, I am listening.”

“Once! Just once, I will do everything to make sure we don’t get hit! Can you do it?”

Burke shouted at Leeha.

“As long as there’s a chance.”

“Watchtower! What will be the distance from the enemy flagship in one minute!”

“In one minute or so- we will be 1.5 nautical miles near the enemy flagship! 0.7 miles from the galleon!”

The distance from the flagship was about 2.7km, and the distance from the galleon was about 1.3km.

With a range of up to 6km, the Culverin will create a wide net. Moreover, they did not shoot with the hopes of hitting their target. Skillful catchers create a wide net to limit their target’s movement. No matter how fast the sailfish is, its range of movement will inevitably be limited.

And the cannons will pour into the narrowed range.

The enemy galleons were equipped with cannons that had an effective range of 500m and maximum range of 3000m. At a distance of 1,300m, a cannon will have a fairly high hit rate.

Except for Leeha, all members of the Sailfish accurately grasped the current situation.

“……Fuck, is this really going to be okay?”

“When I saw the quest window, I knew something smelled fishy.”

To the extent that users pulled out scrolls and fiddled with them.

“The distance is narrowing! We have fully entered Kraven’s 3rd fleet!”

A cry was heard from the watchtower again. Even without having to look at the watchtower, Leeha was watching the players. Of the eight fleets in Kraven’s second row, the 3rd fleet in the back row was completely sunk toward the Sailfish.

In fact, only 7 of the Kraven’s fleets pursued Fibiel’s remaining fleet.

“Navigator, what about the evasive maneuver?”

“……Straight.”

“I knew it would be like this.”

The NPC navigator scratched his head, and the other NPCs looked at each other’s faces without being able to swallow.

Chwaa, chwaaaa-

Just like that, a minute or so went by.

‘54, 55, 56- now.’

Leeha knew without the navigator shouting. A red light flashed simultaneously from the side of the ship and the enemy’s artillery could be seen in the scope.

“It’s coming!”

Dudududung, dududung, dong, dong-!

“Waa……. It’s true.”

One user could not hide his nervousness. The shells pierced the sky with a whistling sound as if it would tear the air!

“Captain?”

“Hold on tight and watchtower, check the distance from the flagship from time to time! Here we go, 『파랑 무효(波浪 無效)〉! 『Acceleration』!”

There was a scratching sound from Burke’s neck. The middle-aged naval commander roared and cast a skill.

It was a skill that was not for an individual but for the ship, it was also a special skill that navy commanders used!

“Uwooooooo! The waves are gone!”

“Kuhahaha, starboard immediately after port. 10 degrees!”

The roaring waves no longer affected the Sailfish. What was the speed of the ship that accelerated without the help of the wind?!

Hwaaaaaa-!

The Sailfish quickly changed direction to the left and then to the right, leaving the cannon’s firing range.

Every time more than a hundred shots were dropped, a huge wave would try and hit the Sailfish, but it could not affect the ship that ignored such waves and gained speed.

“Uwoooooh! The distance from the enemy flagship is 1.4 nautical miles, no, 1.3 nautical miles-”

Their speed made it seem like they were floating in the water like a motorboat. The acceleration of the Sailfish, which showed tremendous movement, was quickly over.

“-1.2 nautical miles! We did it! The distance from the enemy galleon is 0.4 nautical miles!

We are close to the effective range of our cannons!”

The users and NPCs in the artillery room tried to take out a few gunpowder kegs and shoot, but Burke spoke first.

“Don’t shoot the artillery! The ship must not be shaken! Ignore them and approach!”

“Captain, they will be here in 40 seconds. They will be more accurate and more terrifying than ever before.”

They will get closer.

They were barely able to escape with skills, but what should they do now? At the navigator’s words, burke looked at Leeha and the Kraven’s fleet alternately.

“Reinforcement-kun!”

“Not now! A little more! We have to go even closer!”

(To be continued..)

TL’s Corner:

Shelling – the act of bombing a place with artillery shells.

I thought 원군 was a different person, apparently, it was Leeha, burke calls him reinforcement-kun. I mistranslated it. :/
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“We still have to go further! Just a little more!” There was no way Leeha’s mind would be calm.

In the sea where it was impossible to escape, he instinctively knew that the skill Burke used was impossible to use twice.

“If we don’t turn right now, we won’t be able to get out when you fail!”

“If I fail, the whole Dike Beach would be over, so what are you worried about?! Just go!”

Leeha heard Burke’s warning and shouted.

Except for the navigator, all the NPCs and users looked at Burke with rabbit eyes. What kind of attitude was that to a naval commander?

But Burke did not say anything.

“Less than 1.1 nautical miles from the flagship!”

“We have less than 20 seconds left, navigator-nim.”

The navigator and the watchtower NPC alternately said to Burke. The helm held by the naval commander did not move as if it had been firmly fixed.

“Reinforcement-kun!”

“Don’t talk to me and move! 5 seconds to get to 1 nautical mile away!”

Hearing Burke’s cry, Leeha shouted once more. His eyes, body, and mind were completely focused on the Black Bass at the moment. Looking down, burke shouted.

“……Get ready for a quick turn! Hard port, ready!”

Turn left! Everyone, get ready! Wait for the commander’s signal! Hard port! Hard port!

Chwaaaa- chwaaaaa.

“Approximately 150m to reach 1 nautical mile!”

Everyone held their breath. Burke, the navigator, and Leeha also held their breath.


Every time the Sailfish got affected by the waves, one could only hear the roar of the wood as it jumps over the ship.

“Less than 50m away! In fact, we’re already one nautical mile away!”

“You have about ten seconds left, captain.”

“Shhh. It’s okay. Be quiet.”

“Yes?”

Burke told off the navigator. What did he mean it’s okay? The sailor asked.

“Don’t you see him?”

Burke’s eyes saw nothing but Leeha. The movement of a sniper who has mastered even the rippling of the waves. They now saw a person laying face down on the edge.

“1 nautical mile-”

There were some errors. However, it did not deviate significantly from 1 nautical mile.

In other words, they were about 1,852km away from Kraven’s 3rd flagship.

“They should have inserted the shell now! Perhaps soon-”

For once, Leeha was on an adventure. Of course, there was tension. There was also a burden.

There were waves that shook not only the mind but the whole body!

‘I can do it. It’s something I have already done before. No worries.’

However, nothing could stop Leeha.

‘Calm Mind.’

He pulled the trigger after casting his skill.

A single finger lifted from his body as he looked like he had no breathing or pulse.

Baaaaaang—–…….


A slightly different sound from a cannon rang out from the Sailfish.

It was only 2.2 seconds later that a commotion broke out among Kraven’s naval forces.

“Admiral! We are ready to open fire!”

A user who climbed up to be Kraven’s 3rd fleet’s navigator could not contain his pounding heart. He was in the back row, so he didn’t think there would be much to do, but some idiot from Fibiel wanted to commit suicide!

‘Okay, I’ll take the contribution for now.’

Even if he tried to miss, he wouldn’t be able to. The effective range of Culverin was around 1,500m. It was about 300m farther than that but it should be enough.

In addition, considering the size of the enemy’s ship, which was smaller than a galleon, even a few misses could cause waves.

“Run away! The enemy is running away!”

“Oh, ohhh! Those bastards are suddenly breaking out! Navigator Aswani! What’s your order?!

The enemy’s ship suddenly started turning. The navigator saw it too.

However, what if they suddenly gave up the flank? It would be a bad choice if they were in that position where they couldn’t increase the distance anyway.

‘Face the front and show the side? It would just widen the hit range.

 Stupid fools!’

Aswani, the navigator of Kraven 3rd Fleet’s flagship, laughed and turned to face the admiral.

“Admiral! Ready to fire-…… huh? Where did you- huh?”

And then he discovered that the admiral’s body had been moved somewhere.

The NPC, an admiral of the Kraven 3rd Fleet, who was staring at the enemy with his eyes glaring from the upper deck, had already flown to the starboard side of the deck, turning gray.

“What? Admiral?”

Is he dead? Why? No, he can’t die.

“What? What happened?”


“Navigator Aswani!”

The artillery user in he artillery room shouted toward the port, but Aswani did not know what to do.

“Hey, why did the admiral die?”

No one saw it. Because everyone’s eyes were still fixed on the Sailfish. After Aswani’s words fell, they all turned their heads in one direction.

“Yes? Die? What- huh? Ahhh?”

“The- the- the- the admiral is dead!”

And all that was left of Kraven’s 3rd fleet was shock.

That cry was the sound of hope delivered to the Sailfish 1.8km away.

“Uwaaaah?! T-there’s no artillery fire from Kraven’s 3rd fleet!”

“Their ships are in chaos! There are suddenly people in the port and people on the starboard!”

“Really? Their admiral is really dead?”

Users gathered at the stern of the Sailfish could not hide their excitement

Even if the artillery flew, it should have flown sooner. However, what did it mean when there was no bombardment? What does their disorganized movement mean?

“Commander!”

“Kuhahahaha, that’s right! As expected of the old man! Even if he only sent a single person as reinforcement, he still sent the right person!”

“Now, navigator set out!”

Even the navigator who was always level-headed could not hide his delight. It was an accomplishment equivalent to dismantling the enemy fleet with only one ship.

Had it not been for Leeha’s words, they would have been truly delighted.

“Where are you going? There are still three fleets left. We have to take down the whole back row.”

“Huh?”

“What?”

“Yes?”

“Before Drake shows up, we have to finish four Kraven fleets. Commander! What are you doing not turning the boat?”

Leeha pulled the bolt of the Black Bass and made a brazen expression.

『Defense War- Dike Beach Campaign – Special Mission-1』

Description: Stop the Kraven Navy from landing in the Dike Beach for 20 days or kill 4 or more Kraven Fleet Admirals.(1/4)

‘Three more.’

A sniper’s main purpose is to kill the target after standing by and waiting However, it wasn’t the same for naval battles.

Middle Earth’s strongest sniper intended to literally end this war with ‘one voyage’.

It was Leeha’s plan from the very beginning. 20 days at Dike Beach? He couldn’t.

‘Unfortunately, the problem was how to close the distance with the admirals.’

The lack of experience in shooting from a ship also played a part, but the most important problem was that there were no means to narrow the distance.

At that time, he was extremely grateful for commander Burke’s words, who told the crazy strategy.

He was able to convince him using the Bargaining skill.

“If we don’t move to the nearest back row, don’t you think that the 3rd fleet would come back to their senses?”

As Leeha spoke, both users and NPCs of Sailfish had puzzled expressions. Except for Leeha, there was only one person who had a normal expression. A user spoke to that person.

“C-commander-nim, I am not talking nonsense, it’s just a question- you don’t really mean to do that, do you?”

Commander Burke’s expression suddenly became serious.

The first thing that Leeha said to persuade him was that they will use this ship as bait, and that they would shoot only the admiral. However, Leeha did not say ‘how many’ admirals.

Does he now think that it is possible to succeed in the operation? Leeha did not know.

“Are you serious?”

“If we dismantle only the 3rd fleet, they can join another Kraven fleet and come back.”

The 1st to 7th fleet was still intact. Besides, if it was the Kraven guys, they would quickly re-adjust their command and put the 3rd fleet under another fleet.

Burke knew that.

“……Kuhahaha! I see. We can’t let that happen. Good! Turn back again! Hard starboard! Go back to those Kraven bastards and close the distance again with the three ships in the aft!”

Commander!

Hearing Burke’s loud roar, everyone except the navigator looked dead.

“You guys thought that I would take it easy because I’m in a good mood! Who! And don’t doze off! Aren’t we the Sailfish! It’s a fish that crosses the blue sea!”

“What are you talking about, captain-nim?”

The navigator retorted to Burke’s words, but Burke only hummed pretending not to hear it.

“Don’t you know the song “Beyond the blue horizon”?! That our happiness and victory can only be beyond that horizon, hard starboard! And move forward at full speed!”

The bow of the Sailfish sharply bent to the right.

In front of them, the rear flanks of the Kraven fleet were now visible.

Without knowing what happened to the 3rd fleet, which had not yet regrouped its battle line, chased after Fibiel’s ‘huge bait’.

“The movement of the rightmost fleet in the back row of Kraven is strange! They changed direction and went out- as if they had suddenly lost command……”

“Really?”

“Yes! And! And beyond that, the naval commander’s ship is turning!”

The NPC in the watchtower shouted with an excited face.

Even before they could hear the NPC’s cry, the faces of Fibiel navy users were already in bloom. It was because they had already heard the news through the whispers of users who were in the Sailfish.

“Uwaaak! The admiral of Kraven’s 3rd fleet is dead! The admiral of Kraven’s 3rd fleet is dead! Kraven’s 3rd fleet is currently in chaos as it had lost its command!”

“Amaziiiiiiing! Did that person really make it? What? Who is that person?”

“Wah, crazy. That’s completely crazy How? Ask how he did it.”

“Shh! Shh! He’s an expert…. Did he shoot while lying down on his stomach? He shot?”

As if listening to a radio broadcast, Fibiel users gathered to share their opinions.

“What? ‘Huh?’ Cannon? The cannon has a long reach, but how did he hit the admiral-…”

“Wait, cannon. It’s not canon. Gun? Is it a gun?”

“Gun? Musket? Like this?”

One user held up the musket he wore on his back. One of the weapons used by sailors was a musket.

Because it was normal for a naval battle to shoot cannons, they could shoot a musket if they get stuck, and then start melee combat when they get near.

“Hmm……. I don’t know. It looked like a musket.”

“Puhaha, a normal musket’s range is 40m, what kind of musket did he use? It should be different. Isn’t it magic?”

There were already a few musketeers, and it was natural for musketeers who play games to join the navy.

Because it was impossible to level up on land.

Land hunting for ordinary musketeers with the combat assistance system turned on was virtually impossible. They had to get on a ship and grow by being given experience points when piloting a ship.

“I don’t know, it looked like a musket-”

“Everyone, line up Our commander’s effort cannot be in vain! Our fleet will turn again to lure Kraven! Contact the entire fleet! With our 2nd Fleet at the forefront, be prepared to give your all!”

The NPC admiral of the 2nd Fleet, who has entrusted the command of Fibiel’s main naval force, shouted.

The users who were whispering returned to their position in surprise, and then all the fleets that kept their distance from Kraven slowed down and turned around.

(To be continued…)
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Kraven also noticed something was wrong, but they couldn’t miss the prey wagging its tail in front of them.

“Fibiel forces are turning port!”

“So suddenly?”

“I-I don’t know- all of their fleets are turning port-”

“Sailing station! What’s on the left side? Where can their fleet hide?”

“There aren’t any! There are no islands or land!”

“Hmm……. Does the movement of the 3rd fleet have anything to do with our movement? Why did they change direction?”

The admiral of the 7th fleet, who was at the forefront of the Kraven Fleet, tilted his head. It was said that a ship deviated, and all the ships of the 3rd fleet turned to catch it.

The 7th fleet, could not accurately grasp the situation at the rear.

What was the ship that deviated?

And why did Fibiel, who didn’t even have the time to run away, suddenly turn back? The 7th fleet’s questions were quickly answered.

“Urgent! The admiral of the third fleed is dead!”

“What?”

“The admiral of the 3rd fleet died, and the 3rd fleet was absorbed and reorganized by the 2nd fleet located next to them- the cause of death is unknown, and a ship is rapidly approaching the 2nd fleet – that was what they said!”

“What are you talking about? Rotrey is dead?”

“T-That is right.”

The user who brought the urgent news stuttered. He was only reporting what he heard from a whisper, and he did not understand the current situation himself. NPCs used the information transfer where the information is shared by flag-bearers waving flags. And the NPC admiral did not exactly understand how users whisper to each other.

Because of the unique system of Middle Earth that emphasized reality, only inconvenienced the users. 

‘I thought the perhaps the admiral would know, but he doesn’t? Shit, what happened?? What’s the 3rd fleet messenger doing, can’t he communicate properly?’


And then, shortly afterwards, at the rear of the 7th fleet, dong, dodododng-! Noises were heard.

It was the sound of an allied bombardment that Kraven’s navy was familiar with.

“Our allied 2nd fleet are firing! One enemy ship is approaching! The distance is about 1.5 nautical miles, but the enemy’s 2nd fleet is taking over the 3rd fleet, so the gravity of bombardment is-”

The user is still receiving news via whisper. However, his words suddenly stopped. His face turned as blue as seawater.

“So? How is it? Wouldn’t it be okay to send a speed boat, block the enemy’s expected course, hold their ankles, and fire a cannon? Kraven’s fleet is having trouble with only one-”

“Kraven 2nd Fleet’s admiral… died. The enemy ship widened their distance again, and it is estimated that they are heading toward the 4th fleet……”

“-What? Who died?”

The 7th fleet’s admiral’s forehead wrinkled. Only then did the 3rd fleet’s flag fluttered.

The admirals of the 2nd and third battlion at the second row died in a similar way, and the enemy is heading toward the 4th fleet.

The calculation of the systematically superior NPC was fast.

“Deliver the message to the 4th fleet’s admiral immediately! Flag -bearer! Tell him to hide immediately! The enemy has come with some secret weapon! Hurry!”

“Roger that!”

“And call commander Drake!”

Normal NPCs can only communicate with each other through flag-bearers. However, how about the commander-in-chief? The strongest person in the Kraven Navy and commander-in-chief had no such restriction.

“Contact- uh…… Admiral!”

“What?”

“Over there……. It’s the commander.”

The Serpent Fleet was approaching at great speed. It was the appearance that made Kraven cheer and Fibiel sigh.

“Uwaaaaah! Let’s go, let’s go!”

“The cannon shots are falliiiiiiing-! Hold on tight!”


Chuwaaaang, chuwaaaaang-!

The rising foam wetted the deck of the sailfish. Users and NPCs who were already wet became like mice that fell on water once again. Even though the salty sea water covered their bodies, noone complained.

“The galleons of the 2nd and 3rd fleet are chasing us from behind!”

“Ignore them! Even if there are a hundred of those idiots, they can’t hit us!”

They could only shoot from the side. In other words, if they were facing the enemy, they would not be able to shoot. And by the time Kraven turns to its side and opens the artillery door, the Sailfish would have already widened the distance.

Burke and the crew were more than confident their ship, the Sailfish.

‘That’s two. If two more admirals are killed, Kraven will automatically collapse.’

The death of one or two admirals would not be a major problem for the command system. However, ships that should be handled by eight admirals cannot be handled by only 4 admirals.

It was not a simple operation, and even more when artillery battles had to be waged. Therefore, the core of the quest was to remove 4 admiral, and Kraven would have no choice but to retreat to their country.

When Leeha was carefully preventing the Black Bass from getting wet, a user hurriedly ran towards the helm and shouted.

“Keok, c-Commander!”

“What is it?”

“There is an emergency signal from the main unit! On the port side of the main unit, a fleet was rapidly approaching from afar …”

“He-hehehe, right, that’s right. After all, if sharks smell blood, they will come. Everyone brace yourselves! The second storm is coming! The Storm named Drake is coming!”

Burke couldn’t help but exclaim.

He clenched his teeth as he frowned to forcibly eliminate his fear.

“Ah, it’s going to be sweltering.”

“We’re in trouble. Where did they come from? Did they see us?”

“I don’t know. He just showed up-”

“I, I can see them! I can see them! I see the Serpent Fleet! Their are as fast as our ship, no, they are faster!”


While the users were terrified by Drake’s name, the NPC in the watchtower shouted.

The Sailfish was already located behind the Kraven’s direction of travel.

To the right of the Sailfish, Kraven’s 2nd and 3rd lost fleets were in a hurry, and Kraven’s 4th fleet turned to the 2 o’clock direction of the Sailfish and waited.

At the Sailfish’s 12 o’clock, a fleet was clearly visible in the distant sea. They were sailing through the waves as fast as the Sailfish before.

The fleet with tremendous speed was not facing the back of Fibiel’s main force.

“Captain.”

“Yes?”

“Drake is coming.”

“I know.”

“Do you know who is chasing after?”

“Well, it’s obvious.”

“They are coming for us.”

“Right. That’s what I mean.”

Drake was accelerating towards the Sailfish, not Kraven’s main force. Burke ignored the navigator’s remark. The users who were listening to the side were envious of the NPC’s calmness.

“What?”

“Who?”

“Where is he heading?”

The users looked at each other. The screams were almost simultaneous.

The Second Storm is comiiiiiiiing一!!!!

In the bow part of the Sea Serpent, which ran through the waves, a man wearing a triangle hat was stroking his mustache. His eyes seemed to pierce a ship at the distant sea that he could not yet see properly.

“They are daring.”

“Yes?”

“I knew that he had a strong heart, but did he have the ability to do that? Or does he have someone he believes in.”

“What…… are you talking about?”

One user looked at the expression of the man touching his mustache. He didn’t know if the man was talking to himself or if he was giving an order.

And the man in the triangle hat, who had been looking at the sea for a long time, shook his head and turned and shouted.

“Call the fleet. They don’t have to chase Fibiel’s main force.”

“W-what are you talking about, commander? What should we do if we don’t chase Fibiel’s main force?”

The Kraven user who heard Drake’s order was barely able to ask. Assisting him, one of the most difficult NPCs to contend with, was a quest in itself.

“Are all of our navy’s admirals blind? Are you saying that they don’t know what that ship is?”

“Sorry. I haven’t seen it yet-”

“That ship is the Sailfish.”

“Sailfish?”

“It’s the ship of Fibiel’s navy commander. Contact the entire fleet! Tell them to surround that small ship that is currently heading towards the 4th fleet, and pour out all your skills. Now!”

How could they recognize the pattern of a ship that was 20km away? However, among NPCs, NPCs specialized in the sea could recognize it.

Drake’s orders were like from a god of the sea. The Kraven users also understood his meaning.

It was the ship where Fibiel’s naval commander is on!

“Understood!”

“Serpent Fleet, use all your acceleration skills. Get it done in 40 seconds! Let’s see Burke’s face as soon as possible.”

Ay, ay, sir!

Exactly 40 seconds later, all the ships of the Serpent’s Fleet turned at once. It was unbelievably fast for a battleship.

“Admiral Scott! The Kraven Fleet- there’s something strange about the Kraven’s Fleet.”

“What?”

Chwaaa, chwaaa, meanwhile shots were falling near Fibiel’s fleet. Although they were only appearing and running away repeatedly, and only retreated after simple baiting, ships could be seen getting hit directly by Kraven’s artillery.

“They…… are not turning.”

Turning port and firing, then returning to starboard to increase the speed, firing the starboard cannon as it is, and turning again to port- has been the pattern of the Kraven Navy so far..

It is because both guns can be fired alternately, and the Kraven army can catch up with the Fibiel army even with such a maneuver, which inevitably loses a lot of speed, unless Fibiel does not ‘intentionally’ speed up.

—

“Hmm? What is that…?”

However, it was now different.

Ships that have been facing port do not turn their bows to the right. Ah yes, a maneuver that seems to go back after making a u-turn.

Fibiel’s Admiral eyes lit up with sparks.

“C, call the entire fleet! Turn quickly! Turn quickly!”

“Yes?”

“The commander is in danger! They figured out what ship he is on! Turn the entire fleet! Chase after Kraven!”

It was Fibiel who was trying to lure. But now the position had changed. Fibiel’s ships began to turn in a hurry. However, after the Kraven had already turned, they were building a huge encirclement toward the Sailfish.

“Oh, t-the main force- the main force are turning! Before Kraven’s 2nd and 3rd fleet were taken over, they turned around and are getting led by the remaining 6 fleets!”

“Yeeeees-! Great! Then we can win!”

“They have 8 fleets right? Great! Then, aren’t we ahead just by looking at the numbers?!”

“……It’s a pity we can’t see the moment of victory. Drake is coming.”

The news of Drake’s appearance was enough to nullify the good news that they heard before.

“No! Our chances of surviving have increased! Drake will not go after us if he is going after the commander!”

The expression of the users improved even as the Second Storm approached. In fact, the mood across Dike Beach dramatically changed after two Kraven admirals were killed. After being beaten one-sidedly, they though they would either survive or lose until the war is over!

Leeha also heard it.

“Did the main force change direction?”

“Yes! I don’t know if they’re going to fight, but they say they’re using roaming around the artillery room! Of course, you want to fight, right?”

However, Leeha’s expression was dark.

If 6 Kraven fleet and 8 Fibiel fleet engaged in an all-out shelling battle, it will be worth fighting for. However, if they seriously fought each other, the damage to Fibiel’s army will naturally be significant.

‘No. I have to save as many as possible. We need to maintain as many troops as possible so we can catch up on the Marching Plains.’

Leeha’s objective wasn’t simply winning in the Dike Beach. These forces must be used as reinforcements in the battles across Minis. In that case, the preservation of the troops were essential, and indiscriminate attrition could not be waged.

“Commander, call the main unit. Widen the distance. Tell them not to stick to Kraven.”

When Leeha was about to open his mouth, burke, who was holding the helm, started to talk first.

The instructions of the NPC who had the same thoughts as Leeha were quick. However, the user who received the instruction did not understand Burke’s words properly.

“……What?”

“Tell the 2nd Fleet admiral, no, call Scott. This is my command. All of Fibiel’s Fleet is not allowed to engage Kraven. Tell them to focus on escaping from Kraven. Right now. A poor baiting strategy will only lead to a dog fight.”

At Burke’s words, the user’s mouth twitched.

What did he mean by that? He wanted to ask what kind of situation the Sailfish would be in if they did that, but Burke overwhelmed the user with just his eyes.

The momentum that something would happen if they spout nonsense spread on the Sailfish I.

“I…… understand.”

The navigator sighed as the user walked away with an expression that he had eaten shit.

“Captain, you know what that means, right? If you’re already senile, you will be in trouble.”

“Kuhahaha, of course. We should do our job!”

“Well, I don’t think admiral Scott will turn back because of the captain…”

Burke shrugged his shoulders.

“Done! I ordered you to go back, so that’s it! Watchtower! Measure the distance from Kraven’s 4th fleet! And report on Drake’s position every minute!”

“Understood! They were only 3 nautical miles away from Kraven’s 4th fleet in the 2o’clock direction! Within the effective range of the Culverin! And the distance from the Serpent Fleet was roughtly- uh- 11 nautical miles!”

Leeha couldn’t help but laugh as he listened to Burke’s instructions

‘It’s Fibiel’s job to be bold! Doesn’t he have a heart stronger than any other NPC? Seriously, I mean it was crazy to think that he was going to get stuck in Drake’s fleet before he talked about the operation, but…”

Truly a seaman, burke hummed as he grimmaced.

And they were about 5.5 nautical miles from the Sailfish, dung, dung, dung-! A gunshot rang out.

“Focus on evasive maneuver again, port, port!”

Port!

Huwaaaah-.

The Sailfish quickly approached Kraven’s 4th fleet. And at a faster speed than that, drake’s 9th fleet approach from 20k away.

(To be continued…)
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“—!!—–! ——!”

“—1 ..!”

Haaaa…….

The sea has no pattern. As soon as he got used to it there was a different wind, a different current, and the movement of the ship changed, turning over and swaying Leeha’s body.

Pheeeew…….

Still, he didn’t move.

In fact, although his body might shake, he constantly reminded himself that his body is ‘perfectly fixed’ with his mind and brain, even if his body might shake.

The surrounding noise was white noise.

Did Burke’s shout come from the watchtower, or did the navigator give orders? Nothing was audible to Leeha’s ears.

The only thing he was concentrated on was inside the scope.

A triangular hat with feathers stuck out in the distance, net to the mast on the upper deck.

After the command to be careful was delivered, the admirals of Kraven hid and issued orders on their own.

‘The distance is about 1,900m. There’s a 70% chance of hitting. If I shot as I practiced, captain Kijung would have said something.’(TL: I don’t know who Kijung is, he might be someone from Leeha’s military days.)

Never shoot. It is best to remove the probability of exposing a sniper’s location.

But there are times in life when it is unavoidable. Leeha took the wind and waves with his whole body and pulled the trigger slowly.

Baaaaaaaaang-

One…… two-

Click!

He could see pieces of wood bouncing over the scope. He succeeded in piercing the poles where the sail hung. Who was hiding behind it?


Leeha couldn’t take his eyes off the scope even after he finished firing.

Until he saw someone rushing toward the person he shot, confused, puffing his mouth, and waving his arms.

A better confirmation was, of course, possible through the quest window.

“Shooting complete! The Kraven 4th Fleet’s admiral is confirmed dead!”

Leeha smiled brightly, took his eyes off the scope, and shouted. However, this time the mood was different. The users and NPCs of Sailfish did not cheer as before.

“Ara? What’s wrong?”

“Kuhahahaha, good, do you have to concentrate like that to be successful?”

“Take a look around reinforcement-kun.”

Burke laughed, and the navigator gave him a pint glass. Leeha, who could only see one point, was then able to see the whole side. What was the current state of the sea above Dike Beach?

“What……? So sudden-”

It was the same shout that Leeha should have heard while he was concentrating on sniping. The suspicious movement of the Kraven fleet, the fast-approaching maneuver of the Serpent Fleet, and the sea area where they couldn’t escape the encirclement if they don’t get out immediately!

“He didn’t turn the helm until the end, saying that he should not interfere with reinforcement-nim’s concentration.”

“Didn’t he catch one more? Kuhahaha, this is what war is like. There’s no victory without sacrifice.”

Burke spoke as if he knew that it would be the end of him and the Sailfish. At this point, not only Burke but also users on the Sailfish knew how they would end.

“Are you scrolling now?”

“I can’t……. It’s already blocked.”

“Ah, damn. If we survived, our contribution would have been huge…”

Death.

The entire Kraven fleet was forming an encirclement to prevent even seawater from getting out.

 Fibiel forces always called them pirates, but they were definitely first-class navies. The 2nd and 3rd fleets, which had lost their commanders, and had no system in place, were left floating and naturally cut off the rear of the Sailfish, and the four leading fleets turned around and blocked the side of the Sailfish.


The only open space was the front.

‘And the one coming from the front is the Sea Serpent.’

Leeha changed the magazine of the Black Bass and looked around.

Fortunately, they have now formed an encirclement, so they would not get bombarded. However, if they start narrowing down like this, they will soon reach a crossroads. What could they do in the current situation?

Leeha’s brain started spinning rapidly. Standing there, all he could see is the flow of the sea.

“What are we going to do, captain?”

“What should we do? What can we do?”

To die floating on the sea like a lost child? Among the gloomy nuances of the navigator and Burke, Leeha’s voice burst out.

“Full speed ahead!!!”

“W-what?”

“Full speed ahead, commander-nim!”

“Do you know what will happen if we move forward?”

Burke said sarcastically, but Leeha’s eyes did not lose their light.

“Serpent Fleet! That’s our only hope! The same goes for the other users! Do not give up!”

“What if we don’t give up?”

“Yeah……. We’ll die anyway and get a negative contribution, so we have to run rampant. Shall we shoot a cannon?”

Leeha was rather angry at their self-deprecating tone.

Why did they try to give up when it only got a little difficult?

There was a difference between a person who could turn a crisis into an opportunity and a criminal who was bound to come out in such a place.

“That’s not it! Don’t get too hung up on the detailed instructions, look at the bigger picture! The most important thing in this war!”


“The most important thing?”

“The condition of defeat! We will win once Drake dies! Move forward, come one!”

Leeha pulled the bolt of the Black Bass and encouraged the users and NPCs. At that moment, the sound of the Black Bass reloading echoed in the calm sea.

Click-!

“I’m going to finish Drake. Listen to me.”

As soon as Leeha’s words finished, the Sailfish began to speed up.

Kraven narrowed their encirclement, and Fibiel’s ships chased after Kraven. And the Sailfish and the Serpent Fleet sped up while facing each other!

As if they were trying to devour each other, they were able to meet after less than 20 minutes.

Kraven’s encirclement was complete.

The Sailfish and the Sea Serpent were in front of each other.

The Sailfish plunged toward the sea, pouring out the remaining ammunition and supplies. The waterline, which was originally shallow due to a lack of supplies, gradually became shallower, and the already agile Sailfish took on a more elongated and slender appearance.

『Stop, burke. We won. It’s over.』

A magically amplified voice came from the Sea Serpent toward the Sailfish, which was moving fast.

The Sailfish crew were momentarily stunned by Drake’s words, but they did not stop making the ship lighter. Items that were thrown into the sea even before they encountered the Sea Serpent were moving around the Sailfish, riding on the currents.

『What are you doing? Is that how you killed our admirals? Stop it right now.』 “Kuhahaha, this guy, draaaaake! You were the ones who broke into our waters, so why are you treating us like some illegal fishing boats!”

When Drake’s voice was heard again, burke let out a high-pitched voice. However, the distance between the Sea Serpent and the Sailfish was more than a nautical mile away. Approximately 1.3~1.4 nautical miles. He couldn’t hear it.

“Captain, I haven’t used amplification yet.”

“T-this guy, you should have used it sooner, that was embarrassing! Cough, use it now!”

『Voice Amplification』.”

After receiving the navigator’s assist magic, burke belched once more.

The only thing that swayed the sea was the waves, and the ships were extremely quiet.

『Not even worth answering. Get off the boat, burke. I order you to board the Sea Serpent.』

However, those who were already in the Sailfish knew.

What would happen to ships that were 1.5 to 3 nautical miles away from them?

Once Drake utters the word ‘fire’, the Culverin and the cannons will shoot The artillery shells that would fill the air would number at least 10,000. At that point, they did not have to worry about something like accuracy.

『Commander-niiiiiim-!!!!!』

And the army’s voice was heard from beyond Kraven’s encirclement. Burke shrugged and played with his shaggy beard. It looked like he had his own way of showing sadness.

“As expected. You are finally here.”

“Damn bastards. If you want to come, come quickly, or listen to me and run away.”

Drake’s voice drifted through the air as the navigator and Burke murmured.

『If I hear the sound of a cannon being fired from Fibiel’s ship, I will make sure that not even a powder would be left from the Sailfish. Don’t come any closer.』

Fibiel reacted as if they hit a break. Still, the distance between Fibiel’s fleet and Kraven’s fleet was about 3 nautical miles. A culverin can reach, but a cannon cannot.

Drake was fully aware of that as well. Of course, Fibiel’s naval force was in a painful predicament.

“Eeeek-!”

“What should I do, admiral?”

There was at least one more nautical mile to go. However, he didn’t know how to respond to Drake, being told not to approach and not fire his artillery from afar.

Because he didn’t know what could happen, should he stop?

Fibiel’s admiral was indeed Burke’s man.

“What should we do? Contact the gun room of the entire fleet! If they harm the commander, we will fire them immediately. As long as Fibiel Navy is locked down! Pretend to be pushed by the wave, and advance at the speed of 1 knot per hour!”

“Understood!”

Cat-like movements followed on the swaying Fibiel Navy ship. They had to move around carefully and keep in touch, and in the gun room, they had to prepare for any unforeseen circumstances.

『Burke, we will go back with your neck. I know you don’t want to bury your subordinates. Get off your ship now and board the Sea Snake.』

『Kuhahaha! I don’t want to, but will my kids stay still? The moment I get even a single scratch on me, I think even you ignorant bastards will know what would happen.

“Did you find it?”

“I didn’t. Drake is missing.”

“You bastard! Did the commander hide?”

They only need to see Drake’s face.

The users and NPCs of Sailfish tried to find Drake by using all their skills, but the enemy commander did not show himself easily.

“What should we do?”

“Keep looking! We might now be able to see him because he is far away. Don’t be obsessed with the hat, he might have taken it off and hid among the soldiers. We have to find Drake somehow!”

Even if they did, there was a problem with the distance.

He might now have figured out the exact method, but Drake must have already noticed that there was something there. The fact that he was hiding was proof of that, of course, there was no way to further narrow the distance.

The distance between the Sailfish and the Sea Serpent was still about 2 nautical miles.

About 3.7 km.

This naval battle was the longest-range sniping attempt using Black Bass.

It was a 1.8km long-range sniper, and there was an element of anxiety about being on a rocking ship, but anyway, Leeha had the experience of matching that distance in real life.

But this time?

An invisible enemy, and an ultra-long distance of 3.7km! It was a level that regardless if one was a genius sniper or not, one would not be able to do anything.

The users and NPCs tried to look at the Sea Serpent by giving their eyes strength to lose their eyeballs and adding buffs to all of the scrolls but they could not find the target they wanted.

『I will give you 30 seconds.』

『Is that the time for us to run away?! Kuhahaha! Good. If it’s for 30 seconds, I’m not going to attack you, especially ignorant people.』

『Nonsense. Get off the ship in 30 seconds.』

『If I don’t?』

Burke tried hard to kill time, but the joke didn’t work on Drake. Suddenly, the sky over the sea area began to darken with a rumbling sound. Also, it was only on the upper part of Sailfish as if it was painted.

 『Let me show you why I am called the Second Storm.』

“C-c-commander!”

“What do we do? What do we do? Shield?”

“The shield is useless! That bastard’s skill is sinking target ships! It is one of the reasons why he can’t be defeated in a naval battle! He can sink the commander’s ship from the start! The short range for a naval battle is its disadvantage but at this distance-”

It was enough.

Drake has a skill that was enough to cause fear to the users.

『15 seconds left.』

『If I cross, do you guarantee the safety of our ships?』

『Of course. They’re idiots who don’t even know how to start a fire, but I’m not happy with this number either.』

There’s no way he didn’t know it was Drake.

Despite the slow speed of less than 1 knot, Fibiel’s fleet approached slowly and exceeded Kraven’s navy in numbers.

If there really was a dogfight, they wouldn’t win without taking any damage. Drake was a real commander who wanted to reduce even the slight damage.

(To be continued…)
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『Don’t get off the boat, commander!!! Draaaaaaake!	If anything happens to the commander, Fibiel’s army will never forgive you! There will be countless graves in this sea!!!』

Another shout was heard from 2nd Fleet admiral Scott from afar.

Burke knew how much Scott cared about him, but his expression wasn’t bright.

“That’s why I didn’t want him to be an admiral.”

“What are you talking about when you were the one who appointed him?”

“But that’s not what I taught him. I thought him to run away whenever he is hit and lost, especially when Drake pulls out a large fleet.”

Burke shrugged quietly. He knew the motivations of his subordinates well enough, but it won’t be easy to get stuck. Even in a situation where Burke himself was not present, and Drake is in the enemy’s army.

“Shall we get off the ship?”

“S-Shouldn’t you be stopping at this point?”

“Between us. I know the captain’s personality.”

Burke frowned as he listened to the NPC navigator’s words. It was a conversation between a superior and subordinate that could only be understood by users around them who had been in the navy for a long time.

Click-!

Soon after, a small wooden box was thrown into the sea from the Sailfish.

『The boat is off! I will now go down! Promise on this sea!』

『I promise. In the name of the mother of the sea. After taking Burke’s head, Kraven’s ship will retreat without bombarding.』

『Good. And Scooooott! You guys go back too! You know who will become the commander after me, and be the captain of the Sailfish, right?!』

『Caaaaaaaaaaptaaaaaaain-!』

It was almost a cry.

“The boat is moving, commander Drake.”


“And the passenger?”

“There’s only one sailor rowing other than Burke.”

As Burke expected, drake wore the uniform of a regular naval officer. The commander’s sword and the captain’s hat had already been removed. Drake and the captain, standing next to him, did not take their eyes off the approaching boat.

“Okay. They were our enemy, but they are a great navy. Be polite.”

It wasn’t just them. The situation, which was nothing more than a new wave, drew the attention of not only the former Fibiel navy but also the Kraven navy.

There, no user nor NPC could predict anything. No, it was Leeha’s order from the beginning.

Make as much noise as they could to distract the enemy’s nerves.

Additionally, talk to Drake as much as one can!

If they wanted to see the enemy commander who was hiding, they had to watch his mouth move and hear the sound of his voice.

Only then will be able to find out who the hidden Drake is.

“Okay- hmm? W-who are you!”

The Kraven navy, who bowed toward Drake, was startled.

A face he had never seen before stood on the tail of the Sea Serpent and the ship’s stern, which had no one but himself and the commander.

“Pheeew, so this is where you were? Now, raise your hand, drake. If you lift one finger, I will blast your head.”

The unknown man lifted a black rifle that did not reflect even sunlight.

*****

“This sea, how does it flow?”

“What?”

“The way it flows. How does it flow? Where does the current go?”

Before getting into contact with the Sea Snake, Leeha was able to think of an idea from one of the Sailfish’s sailors, what the flow of the tide was. What if it was Drake who was feared and acknowledged by the brilliant NPC Burke?’


‘Even if they didn’t know about the Black Bass, one shouldn’t give your identity and distance to an unknown enemy.’

One had to approach. And he could not get near the Sailfish. Unlike in Marching Plains, there is no such thing as a ‘bypass’.

There was only one way left. Leave his body to the flow of the sea. To be precise, it wasn’t about swimming in the sea, but getting on “something floating in the water”.

‘Could I avoid the enemy’s detection when I ride on a wooden plank like a drifter?’

That was the first gamble.

Therefore, Leeha and Burke threw all sorts of ancillary items into the sea, pretending to lighten up the Sailfish’s weight in order to increase speed.

In the meantime, Leeha was thrown into the sea.

That fact was so secret that no one noticed it. Of course, that wasn’t all. In any case, there were a lot of ships around Sailfish, and many eyes were concentrated on them. Leeha couldn’t deceive people’s eyes just by laying on his face.

So, naturally, a second gamble was necessary.

Trying to take advantage of the loopholes in the skill description. Leeha held his breath while casting the skill.

‘Camouflage!’

Camouflage is canceled when Leeha moved for more than 1m per minute. Or he could release it on his own.

Then what if he didn’t move his ‘body’? What if he didn’t move his ‘body’ while laying flat on his stomach?! Will it be released?

Or not?

Will it work?! Please!

Leeha begged and prayed again and again. Please don’t get released. Whoever said that the universe helps those who are desperate? Middle Earth heard Leeha’s wishes.

‘Okay, the camouflage didn’t come off! With this, we have passed the second hurdle !’

While Burke, drake, and Fibiel’s admiral were on a stand-off, the oak barrel containing Leeha floated along the current naturally toward the Sea Serpent Fleet.

The next step was to climb up by grabbing the emergency rope of the Sea Serpent.

As soon as he got on the stern, Leeha discovered Drake, who had changed into ordinary clothes.


There was no gap at all.

Leeha immediately took out Black Bass and aimed at Drake.

“Hands up, drake. If you lift even one finger, I will blast your head.”

“…. hmmm?”

“H-How did you get through the detect-”

“Tsk. You there, shut up and step back. One wrong move and your commander’s head will be blasted.”

Leeha made a hoarse sound.

Hearing the shuddering snake-like voice, the Kraven user was not able to come to his senses.

What happened? How is a Fibiel unit on this ship?

He wanted to ask something in a mixture of confusion and bewilderment, but his words didn’t come out properly. What if he opened his mouth prematurely and the intruder shoots Drake?

‘Kraven’s loss would be confirmed! T-the contribution-’

It wouldn’t just be zero, it would become negative.

Of course, Leeha’s threat would naturally work.

All of the crews of Sea Serpent who turned their heads to see what was happening as the use backed away and suddenly retreated were astonished.

“F-F-Fibiel!”

“What?! What happened?”

“Co- Commander! Commander Drake-”

The Sea Serpent became noisy in an instant. Leeha stood calmly despite the commotion. It was just right. To get people to focus.

Baaaaaang—–!

The Black Bass’ muzzle pointed toward the sky, and then it shot out an explosion comparable to that of a Culverin cannon.

Before they could even react, the rifle was already aimed at Drake again.

“What is that?”

“It came from the commander’s ship.”

“In the Sea Serpent? Did they shoot a cannon?”

“That- I don’t know. What happened…?”

“Who’s that? Who is it?! Our commander!?”

“A-ah, the Sailfish is still far away. The sound- where did it come from? We can’t confirm anything!”

“How about Commander Burke?”

“Maybe he is in the boat….”

The boat seemed to have stopped on its way to Sea Serpent.

Neither Kraven nor Fibiel’s navy could understand the situation. There were only three people who had fully grasped the situation at the moment.

“Indeed…… You are the thing that Burke believed in. If my memory is correct, you are using the weapon of one of the Three Musketeers.”

“NPC talking about memory. Now, what are you going to do, drake? I’m fine whichever you choose, but I think it’s better for you to back off.”

And out of the three people, only Leeha was in control of the situation.

The situation had been reversed in an instant.

Not Kraven Navy encircling the Sailfish, but Fibiel Navy encircling the Sea Serpent. However, Leeha couldn’t pull the trigger right away either. 

‘When Drake dies, the Naval battle against Kraven would be over. However…’

Will Kraven’s forces retreat?

That was Leeha’s concern. What if the Admiral NPCs come to avenge Drake? In the end, the dogfight he is trying to avoid would happen.

If the total of more than 700 ships of Fibiel-Kraven had a dogfight, the damage is unimaginable.

That is why Drake and Burke acted this way in order to conserve their strength as much as possible.

“Get all the ships off now. If you promise to return to your country, I will spare your life, drake.”

Leeha’s voice was low and heavy. However, loud enough to spread around.

“C-commander-nim!”

“Haa, damn, let’s wrap it up like this! Musket! Where did the musketeers go!?”

“Loading! Loading!”

Click, click.

The users and NPCs of the Sea Serpent began to move in a hurry. The commander was taken hostage, but knowing that there was only one enemy, it was natural that they would somehow try to solve the situation.

“What to do? The one who inherited the musket of the Three Musketeers. I don’t think you can shoot me. You will not be able to come back alive.”

“Why do you think I won’t be able to shoot?”

“Wat?”

Drake’s eyebrows twitched.

“You and I are just exchanging lives. One stranger from Fibiel dies, and the commander-in-chief of Kraven will die, and your defeat would be confirmed. Do you think Kraven naval force will be able to get out of this water without you?”

Leeha calmly spoke to Drake.

Then, gradually raised his voice. For everyone to hear. Especially for the ‘users’.

“And when the defeat is confirmed! Users! Your contribution will immediately become negative. Can you handle it? You will all die in this sea for nothing! Shouldn’t you avoid the damage? But what do you think the damage will be to your navy, having lost three admirals and a commander-in-chief? Even if we take 10 damage, you will take 150, no 200 damage! You could not even use the Culverin because the ship’s distance is getting narrower! You know, right? There! If you don’t lower your musket within 3 seconds, it will all be over. Drake’s head will be gone! 3, 2-”

The Kraven users lowered their muskets after getting pressured by Leeha.

They couldn’t do anything because they were out of the effective range anyway, but they didn’t even have the guts to maintain their position.

Leeha spoke quietly again while Kraven users were calculating on their heads.

“We still have commander Burke. Don’t forget that, drake. What do you think will happen to Kraven kingdom if you don’t completely destroy us in this naval battle? Can the Kraven navy survive our Fibiel fleet without you there? After all, I’m a stranger.”

“.. Hmmm.”

Leeha did not miss the subtle changes in Drake’s expression.

What came out was Kraven’s main forces That included Drake, one of Kraven’s most important figures.

What if Kraven lost it all?

It is as if a pillar of the country has been pulled out. If Fibiel took a lot of damage, it would mean that Kraven would be more than seriously injured The fate of the country might be divided. Even if the opponent wasn’t Fibiel….

“If you die losing the battle! Your level will go down, your item will drop, and your contribution would be negative! If you don’t want to give up playing Middle Earth in a completely ruined Kraven country, users should stand down and cooperate with me! That’s the best way for you!”

Leeha exclaimed in a loud voice again.

And to a large extent, his threat was paying off.

“What are you saying? Did anyone contact you?”

“Right now, commander- hmmm……. Not yet. I…… I haven’t been contacted yet.”

The admiral of Kraven’s 6th fleet asked, but the navigator user had no choice but to keep his mouth shut. If what he had been hearing via whisper was true, there was no need to tell.

‘The NPC bastard would 100% go out to fight. Then, I won’t be the only one to get fucked.’ Level down, item drop, negative contribution, and being unable to log in for 48 hours.

He couldn’t afford to get those penalties.

(To be continued…)
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“What should we do?”

“I-I don’t know. Shouldn’t we step back first? We have to save the Sea Serpent first. If even the Sea Serpent breaks down, my quest will disappear altogether.”

“Right?”

A strange battle of nerves began to take place between Kraven users and NPCs in the Sea Serpent. The users did not openly throw their weapons on the floor, but slowly and gently distanced themselves from Drake.

“W-what are you doing! Don’t step back! There! There! Raise your weapons now!”

Seeing the crews’ abandonment, the NPCs threatened them but it had no effect.

They didn’t know what weapon he was holding, but they knew that it was some sort of musket, and if he aimed at the commander’s head like that, it would definitely lead to an instakill.

“Then you will die too. Without fail.”

Drake’s eyes were burning. Leeha’s eyes did not move.

It was a fierce confrontation between the commander-in-chief of Kraven, who was in charge of one axis of the national war, and a single sniper from Fibiel. Drake spoke again.

“Whoever puts the second storm to rest is not prepared to survive in the waters near Kraven. You will surely die.”

Bluffs are overlaid on bluffs.

What he actually needed to do now was nothing. To show the enemy how far he could handle.

Drake says it’s okay to die.

The sad thing was that the other person speaking was Leeha. When it comes to death, it meant that he was a person who has been through Middle Earth more closely than anyone else.

“Isn’t it an honor to be able to erase the Kraven kingdom from the map with one death?”

Leeha revealed his white teeth. A flawless smile that showed determination.

Drake’s eyes burned with anger, but his expression and momentum were calm. Seeing Leeha’s smile, drake’s shoulders went up and down.

Seeing him clearing his breath, the hearts of the nearby Kraven users and NPCs pounded as if they were about to explode. What orders will their commander-in-chief give, and what should they do?


The tight string of tension, the thin and strong light protruded from Drake’s eyes and met Leeha’s eyes seemed to spread around the Sea Serpent.

It had been quite some time since Leeha lifted the Black Bass, so his arms were shaking, but he didn’t show anything. The smile faded, and all his nerves were focused only on one man, drake.

No matter who was around him or whatever he did, he was confident.

The confidence to pull the trigger faster than anyone else.

At least not as much ‘now’. He had a strong will even if he could die.

“……Burke didn’t believe in the weapon the Three Musketeers used.”

“What?”

There was no way Drake didn’t know that. Leeha’s spirit, full of will, was stronger than Drake’s.

“He believed in you, who handled the weapon.”

Drake turned back, ignoring the muzzle pointed right at his head.

“W-where-”

“Sailors!”

“Yes! Commander!”

“The entire Kraven fleet, including the Sea Serpent and the Serpent Fleet, will retreat from the waters of Fibiel right this moment.”

After cutting off Leeha’s words, drake completely acknowledged his defeat.

“Yes?”

“Huh?”

“What did Drake say just now?”

Some of the users pricked up their ears. Kraven navigator’s face had a sullen expression. Hearing Drake’s acknowledgment of defeat, Leeha was the most perplexed person.

“Do you think I would believe your word?”


Drake raised his eyebrows.

“I am Drake.”

“Yes, you are Drake, and I am me. Commander Burke might believe you, but do you think I would believe it?”

From beginning to end Leeha had already seen people who would do anything to win a war.

‘Damn, how do I make a deal here? It’s not even an era where there was a seal. Will he write a 『Contract』?’

Of course, Leeha thought of it in his heart Drake, unaware of this, just called his subordinate.

“Navigator!”

“Yes, yes, commander.”

“Bring me my coat.”

“Yes? Commander’s coat?”

“That’s right.”

The navigator noticed that Drake’s eyebrow was raised again The sailor was frightened by his dragon-like face and ran away. The brief moment he was on his way to the captain’s office, drake himself shouted, using voice amplification.

 『Listen Kraven Fleet.』 The surrounding sea area became quiet in an instant.

『All Kraven Fleet, including the Serpent Fleet, you are forbidden from fighting Fibiel.』 Murmurs occurred in the quiet waters.

What did he mean by that?

『I swear to the mother of the sea. I, howard Drake, promise that I will not attack the Fibiel Forces and ships, and I will not lead Kraven’s navy to invade Fibiel’s waters until the all-out war between Fibiel and Minis is over.』

The murmurs grew louder What? Is the war over? What’s going on? Isn’t that a declaration of surrender?

“C-Commander……. Here.”

The navigator hurriedly took Drake’s coat and handed it to him. Drake looked at the coat he had received for a while, then let out a final sigh. 『This is an oath made by the son of Haeshin, that not even the king can refuse. As proof of this promise, I will give this coat to Fibiel’s-』

“……Your name?”(TL: Mada kono Sekai Wa)


Drake paused for a moment and asked Leeha. Still holding the Black Bass and not lowering it down, Leeha answered.

“Musketeer, Ha Leeha.”

『-Ha Leeha.』

Drake approached Ha Leeha. He didn’t even know what effect this would have. However, at least he knew the weight of a promise made openly by the commander-in-chief of an army.

“It should be okay with this.”

Drake slowly approached and held out his coat to Leeha. Leeha looked into his eyes. And saw his behavior. Listened to him.

Leeha knew better than anyone that the point where coercion and intimidation had passed. Leeha lowered the Black Bass.

“……I have already finished talking with commander Burke. We will not bombard the Kraven ships until they have left Fibiel’s waters.”

“……Thank you.”

Drake did not show any expression of thanks for all the things that happened, but he was calm. Leeha received the coat held out to him.

『You have acquired the Heroic Coat with the Blessing of the Sea God.』

He couldn’t pay attention to the fact that he had received a heroic coat.

It was because, as soon as he held the coat, notification windows started to pop up with all kinds of sound effects.

『You have completed the quest ‘Defense War – Dike Beach Campaign – Special Mission-1’』

『You have earned 12,930 War Contributions.』

『You have also acquired additional 1,500 War Contribution points.』

‘It’s over-’

He thought that was all, but there was another Pabaamm-! A loud fanfare shook Leeha’s mind.

『Temporary truce between Kraven and Fibiel has been established.』

『Truce Period: 30 days』

『Agreement Signed by: Fibiel’s Side – Naval Commander Albert Burke, deputy: Musketeer Ha Leeha

Kraven’s Side – Commander-in-Chief Howard Drake』

“Wow… What is this? I-Is this only visible to me?”

It couldn’t be. It was a notification that was shown to all users of Fibiel and Kraven who participated in the war, and at the same time, it was an event that clearly imprinted the existence of the Musketeer, Ha Leeha.

Babam-!

Finally, with the sound of achievements that followed, the war between the two countries that began at Dike Beach came to an end after a long time.

It wasn’t strange that they focused on a single area.

By the time the naval battle that began in sunrise was over with an armistice agreement, the sun had already set.

Therefore, it was unavoidable that Leeha briefly missed the fact that the status of Kidd’s 『Chain Teleport: Three Musketeers』 skill had changed.

『Achievement: Recognized by the Son of the Sea God』

Congratulations! You have been recognized by the representative of the clan serving the Emperor of the Sea, haesin. All who serve Haeshin will honor you, and your name will slowly but surely be known in every sea where waves exist.

Reward: 17 stat points, able to breathe underwater

『You are the second registrant of the achievement』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and 200% of the existing effect will be rewarded.

Effect: 34 stat points

God? Did they have something like this? He had heard that there were many gods, but.

Leeha looked at the achievement window and tilted his head for a moment.

Just as the demon king and other fragments exert their power from the Devil, there were various beings that appear and exert divine power from places where gods resided.

Just as Leeha was trying to recall the phrase that was lightly mentioned and passed even in the setting, there was a fanfare around him.

“Kuhahaha! Reinforcement! – No, Ha Leeha! You have done it! Success!”

Burke shouted in a loud voice from the boat floating below the port of Sea Serpent. The pure joy of being a naval warfare commander was nowhere to be found, and that childlike joy was passed on to Leeha as well.

“Commander!”

“Kuhahaha, we won! It’s an armistice, really- it didn’t work out the way you thought it would!”

Drake’s eyes lit up at Burke’s laugh.

He was still looking at Leeha with a cold face. There was a slight regret, but that was all, drake was a man who knew how to take responsibility for his words.

“Is this your idea?”

“It was more of a gamble than an idea.”

“Gamble…”

The commander-in-chief of Kraven, which the Fibiel Navy always called ignorant and savage pirates.

‘It’s a complete opposite in appearance.’

A quiet Drake with a neat appearance as opposed to Burke with a scattered beard. The more Leeha looked, the more he thought that it was the opposite of what he heard.

“You beat me by gambling at sea…. It seems that the Sea God is very fond of you.”

“Yes? Come to think of it what is the Sea God-”

As Leeha was about to ask a question, burke shouted again.

“Drake! Are you listening? Huh? Are you listening? It’s our victory! Turn the bow right now!”

Leeha wanted to hear more, but Burke made a fuss and he wasn’t able to continue the conversation.

“……Get off the ship, Ha Leeha. Although I acknowledge the armistice agreement, as the captain of the Sea Serpent, I will not allow any further embarkation. Navigator!”

“Y-Yes! Commander!”

“Tell the entire fleet to get ready to return. I will have to see the king.”

“Understood!”

Drake immediately turned around after saying that. The armistice was signed by the commander-in-chief, but in the end, the king’s permission. Even the Kraven users were puzzled by the sudden armistice even, then much the king.

It’s to get approval, but if Kraven’s king didn’t like it…… he might dismiss Drake for signing the armistice at will. In the worst case, he might receive a punishment instead of a simple dismissal.

It can then start the invasion again. Maybe that’s what the 30 days armistice meant. When Leeha got to that point, Leeha realized that it wasn’t the time to be happy.

“Commander Burke! Let’s go back!”

Leeha put the coat he received from Drake into his inventory and jumped into Burke’s boat. As soon as Leeha’s got on the boat, the rower quickly rowed.

“Kuhaha! What? Where?”

“Where do you think? To the Sailfish! And to our beach!”

“Naturally! If you are a sailor, you have to soak in alcohol for a day or so-”

“Alchohol! Commander! You know we don’t have time for that right? Move quickly now and throughout Minis…… huh?”

Leeha, who was still angry at Burke, stopped.

“What? What’s the matter?”

“T-The skill- Chain Teleport!”

What Leeha did was check the status of the Chain Teleport skill.

The expected advance time of Fibiel troops throughout Minis was in the morning, and now the sun has set. However, it was only the first day. Even if Fibiel launched an all-out attack, there were stages in war, and it should still be having a battle of attrition.

In other words, according to Leeha’s prediction, there should still be room for a few days.

『Chain Teleport: Three Musketeers』

Effect: Teleport to an active friend(Limited to: Luger- inactive, Kidd- active)

However, that wasn’t the case. It seems that the situation on the battlefield has changed rapidly.

‘Kidd’s status- Active! Alexander has appeared! When? When did he activate it? Morning?’

If it’s been a few hours already, the damage to Fibiel army would have been unimaginable! Just looking at Kidd’s signal meant that the situation wasn’t favorable.

Leeha turned to Burke and shouted.

“Commander! To Dike Beach! Quickly!!”

Leeha wanted to use teleport right now, but he couldn’t. Going alone wasn’t the purpose.

“What’s the matter?”

“The Dragon Knight has appeared in Minis! They must have collided with the main unit! As soon as we return, we must gather all available troops!”

(To be continued…)
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Burke understood Leeha’s sense of urgency. His playful expression disappeared in an instant.

“Are you in a hurry? Anyway, the preparation time is-”

“It’s urgent. We can’t have complicated conversations, but I have a way to know the urgency of the situation. And right now, I received a ‘red light’. It’s urgent, no, it’s not just urgent. Commander Burke.”

“……Damn, I was prepared for it, but I didn’t know that I’d be fighting like a land dog. Do you know what we’ll be like?”

After a few attempts, the Sailfish and the small boat were connected With the feeling of floating into the air, the boat was pulled over the Sailfish.

“What is it?”

“We lose strength.”

Burke swallowed his words in embarrassment. Leeha knew what it meant.

“It can’t be helped that you lose strength! And the important thing is not to really fight. The important thing is that the commander and the soldiers of Dike Beach advance all over the Marching Plains. And the fact that you are going to Minis from there!”

Not only the NPCs but also the users.

These are those who gained experience while handling ships on the sea and leveling up.

In Middle Earth, where the acquired skill and proficiency of each skill differ depending on how they grew up in the same class, even users had to have different combat methods between the navy and army.

However, it was good enough for Leeha. There might be some degree of weakness, but there are still a lot of them.

It was more meaningful than Fibiel’s large army advanced on the Marching Plains.

‘We should hurry before the ‘hidden enemy’ in Minis notices. If they hear the news of Kraven and find out that our army is going to the Marching Plains, they will be shocked.’

Fibiel’s army advancing from Dike Beach would exceed their expectation.

In other words, there will be a variable that would cause a ‘puncture’ in the huge encirclement network they have prepared. They would not have seen the sudden variable coming.

Their plan was to have Faust and Crowley position in Marching Plains to attack Fibiel’s main force, however, even if it worked, the army from the ‘Dike Beach Campaign’ will be positioned behind Faust and Crowley.

They will surround and try to attack each other!


Leeha wanted that kind of variable.

In other words, he wanted to improve the probability of that situation happening even by 1%.

“Good, I’m going to order to go back at full speed.”

“Yes, and commander, do you know what to do? Because I can use magic to move immediately-”

“You mean I have to go to the old man Granville without delay by passing through the Marching Plains with all my might?”

“Yes. Please.”

Seeing Leeha’s impatient expression, burke grinned. It was leisure that only a middle-aged man could have.

“Ho, really. I may look crazy to your eyes, but I am Fibiel’s naval commander.”

“Yes?”

“You don’t have to carry everything on your own. Don’t worry about this, because we will go quickly even if all those guys in our navy die. As for Drake, keep calm.”

Burke stuck out his chest and proudly said.

Consolation not comfort, wit not humor. Hearing the NPC naval commander’s words, Leeha felt somewhat emotional.

Yes, he was definitely impatient. There was a saying that haste makes waste. Now it was the time to refresh his mind.

Leeha answered Burke’s words with a smile.

“C-Cough. Okay. But if you kill all of them, will you come to the Marching Plains alone?”

“Puhahaha! That’s true, too. In any case, tell the old man first to not go to the other world and wait.”

Burke held out his hand. Leeha held out his hand as well.

It was less than 12 hours that he was confident in the whole of Dike Beach, but perhaps it was because they had fought a short and intense battle together, and he could feel a deep comradeship that transcends ranks.

“I will really tell him the exact words you told me.”

“Then! That’s the only way you’ll get hit? He must have a hard time sleeping because of his old age, puhahahaha!”


From their first meeting to their last, he was an absurd NPC. Leeha did not cast the chain teleport skill until after Burke’s joke was over.

At around 9 am, the sun had completely risen and it was a dazzling morning, but the atmosphere in Fibiel’s main forces was heavy. The entire 1.66 million Fibiel troops who entered Minis were in a perfect formation for the Minis Capital.

Standing in front of them was the Commander-in-Chief of Fibiel, Fibiel’s Pillar, Granville.

“What was the significance of our existence in an era when the means of war have overtaken the means of peace.”

The silver-haired old knight on horseback raised his voice lightly.

The magically amplified voice spread within a range sufficient to be heard by the entire Fibiel Army.

A whopping 1.66 million people gathered, but there was no noise. Except for the occasional sound of the wind on the great plains, the silence was unrealistic.

The voice of the old knight leaked out again from within.

“We are the last hope of our country.”

All the eyes of Fibiel users and NPCs were focused on Granville. Everyone knew by now what the situation was.

“The final victory or defeat in this decisive battle is in your hands, not mine. After the united decisive battle against the Demon King, the trumpet that calls for hope is being heard again.”

There was depth in the commander-in-chief’s words. There was a ringing. Even though they knew it was a game, the words of the final victory or defeat that he spoke of were enough to completely convey to the users.

“Do you desire reward? There will be. However, it does not mean material reward. Hope doesn’t come from a single gold coin. Your heart will be filled with confidence and pride for fighting for your country regardless of rewards.”

It was a game made by the hands of the users.

Because the flow of the situation and its ending will change Middle Earth again. Some people remain on the battlefield simply because of their curiosity. Gradually, the intoxication and excitement of the users and Granville’s voice gained strength. As if responding to that voice, the hearts of the users began to beat more and more.

“And we will be recorded. At last, as those who made the name of Fibiel to the world, a history that is beyond the individual will remember us!”

The light voice of an old knight became like that of a roaring beast. The commander-in-chief then raised his sword slowly. It was a sword that sparkled in the morning sunlight, and it was a small polarized light, but all the Fibiel users received the illusion as if they had seen it in front of their eyes.

“Raise your swords, lads.”

Uwooooohhhh.

“Sing your spells, ladies!”


Uwoooooh.

“Do not be afraid, children of Fibiel!”

Ohhhh! Ohhhh!

The horrifying roar soon turned into cheers. When Granville’s every word flew into the users’ ears.

“All troops-!”

Granville turned his back. The commander-in-chief, looking at the sea of allies, showed his back to them and finally swung his sword.

 “-Charge!”

As if waiting with that cry, the Fibiel army exploded.

Waaaaaaaaah-!

The army of 1.66 million began their charge.

The most advantageous thing for the breakthrough was the formation that could be used because there were no wedge-shaped or mounted troops, but infantry that could explode at the moment beyond horseback riding.

“Hwangryong-!”

Hwangryong-!

“Lailai-!”

Lailai-!

Standing in the center was Hwangryong, one of the largest guilds in Fibiel! Based on Pei Wu, who stood at the front, the number of personnel in yellow clothes spreads all over the sides, and the number of tankers protecting them and keeping pace with them was indeed over 300,000.

“Keep your pace! Being ahead in war will only lead to death!”

“Do not go wrong by coveting the ball! Hide behind the tanks and charge!”

Since they and the tankers were running together, their speed was not as fast as usual, but that was enough. On the great plains near Minis’ capital, the dust generated by Fibiel army was endless.

“Sir Granville. Will this be okay?”

“What do you mean?”

Fibiel’s advisor looked at Granville.

Neither the enemy nor the allies could hide their formation from each other, so everyone could see the distance and number. Minis’ formation, which the advancing Fibiel had to face, was somehow different from usual.

“The enemy’s formation…… it feels like a trap, but…”

Minis’ formation was in the form of a wedge with the center slightly protruding toward Fibiel. Considering that the normal defensive formation was a method of indenting and luring inward, or considering that it was a straight line, minis’ formation was rather similar to that of an attacking force.

In other words, an offensive wedge and a defensive wedge collided. From the defender’s point of view, it was an arrangement that left the side empty.

If Fibiel spread its left and right wing towards that point, even the 1.3 million Minis force would never be able to fight comfortably, so what the hell were they doing?

“I know.”

“Yes?”

Granville closed his eyes and pointed to the two ends of the army that was about to collide. Dust was rising from both ends, left and right.

“T-there-”

“I just got a report. The garrison troops that had been spread all over Minis left the castle and gathered.”

What if they spread the Fibiel group widely and hit the empty side of Minis’ central defense group shaped in a pendulum? Defenders who have been hiding in the castles everywhere in Minis will attack through the gaps in the thin attack layer!

“A-are we keeping the charging order? If the left wing and right wing keep breaking through the enemy’s defenses as they are-”

“Everyone would be expecting something, but what? And the Fox of the Prairie overlooked one thing.”

“What… are you talking about?”

“In this world…… there are some things that could not be overcome by mere scheming.”

Granville’s eyes shone. Granville knew all too well that he can’t beat Ewin in schemes. Users around him, especially Ram Hwayeon, who took on the role of rear supply and messenger, listened to him.

“What is it, commander?”

“I think the guild master of Hwahong already knows.”

Granville looked at Ram Hwayeon and smiled.

“M-me? If it’s something that cannot be overturned by schemes…”

Her head went taut. What can’t be overturned by scheming? Their guild war with Byulcho suddenly came to mind. Even though Hyein ran wildly, what did she think?

‘Clash of Strength!’

Granville glanced at her change of expression and spoke again.

“You know? A typical example is the current situation. A few enemies cannot besiege many enemies.”

Fibiel’s army of 1.66 million against Minis’ Army of 1.3 million.

“At least if they were going to use such a basic strategy against me, they should have moved faster. Huuu…… I am a step ahead, ewin.”

Granville whispered softly to his rival, who could not hear it.

There were 100,000 troops aiming at Fibiel’s left and right wings, but they still need some time to reach.

If they join, the Minis army will have a total of 1.5 million troops and there will only have a 160,000 troop difference, but if they do not reach in time, the difference would still be 360,000 troops.

Granville was confident. Before the enemy on the sides arrives, they will be able to defeat the enemy with the 360,000 troop difference.

The Pillar instructed the strategy, step by step, silently and surely.

At that moment, the first collision occurred at the junction of the two armies.

(To be continued…)
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“Comet Strike!-”

“Kaaaaaaak- !”

The red grains that were gathering in the air quickly vaporized and disappeared. Not only that, the magician who floated in the air fell to the floor without knowing why.

“Good! Biyemi-nim, please stop the mages floating in the air!”

Kijung shouted and raised his shield.

Bang-!

Although the hammer that the giant struck was the size of an adult woman, it could not break Kijung’s shield.

“Kikis, don’t worry about it.”

“Haaaaaa!”

Before Biyemi could respond, Tale cut off the side of the giant who hit Kijung with a hammer. It was difficult for the simple forces of the Minis army to withstand the three men moving as if they were one body.

“Ohhhhh! Byulcho!”

“Follow Master Kay! Follow him!”

Byulcho personnel assigned to the left wing were the most conspicuous group of the nearby armies. They have already practiced numerous movements specialized for group battles since the time of High ground battles.

The right-wing of the Minis army, which they collided with, was by no means an easy opponent, however, they had semi-rankers with them and were spearheaded by Byulcho, who was killed in combat, which improved their situation.

“We must flank the enemy center! We must break through this front!”

“Let’s go! Let’s go!”

“Before Alexander comes! Before the enemy’s flank! Buff!”

“Bless!”

“Striking!”


Kijung’s command was immediately followed by the healer’s skill.

Ram Hwayeon was in charge of contacting key personnel scattered throughout the Fibiel army from the rear, so Kijung was able to accurately grasp the situation.

‘It is said that dust had started rising from the left wing. It probably wouldn’t even take 3 hours. They have to break through before that!’

The main issue is the defenders of each Minis Castle making a move. It will take a long time for them to approach, but they do not have the time.

“Don’t think of it as 1v1 PK! If we attack at our own tempo, we will surely win!”

Ohhhhh-! Let’s gooooo! With the gap between those who have turned on the Combat Assistance System and those who have turned off Combat Assistance System, it was inevitable for experts who have turned off their Combat Assistance System to break through and finish the war.

As Byulcho from the right wing was showing their strength, someone in the right-wing was showing his power on the right wing. The difference was he was alone without anyone’s help.

“Uwaaaak-! Charge, chaaaarge!”

“Wait.”

Kidd rushed forward while blocking a group of people running at random If there were no tanks and healers raising their shields, there would be dozens of arrows would have stuck on Kidd’s body.

Magic and arrows were already pouring out of Minis’ formation, which was firmly in a defensive posture. Although the battle had already begun by clashing with each other, he was not in a hurry and was blocking the nearby allies.

“W-what? Why are you stopping all of a sudden?”

“There.”

“Huh?”

“That is the weakest line of defense.”

Kidd’s eyes scanned quickly. Tankers with shields are in front, and dealers with swords are lined up right behind them. After one line, the mid-range dealers using spears, giant sickles, and crossbows stand the same.

However, the level was different. Even if the level was similar, the ability to respond to emergency situations was inevitably different for each person. It was the gap that Kidd found.

“So?”

“I’ll give you a signal, so follow me.”

“What-”


Cli-ck…….

As soon as the coat flew away, Kidd ran forward. It was a much faster movement than most martial artists, but the same side looked uneasy.

“Y-you can’t run right out of the shield!”

“That crazy- who is that?”

“Ah, fuck, when war breaks out, all sorts of bastards-”

As soon as he went out of the shield, magic and arrows should have poured out!

“……Huh?”

However, it didn’t. The distance between Minis’ defense line and Kidd was less than 50 meters, but how could that be?

What Fibiel’s soldiers could hear was a long sound. A foreign sound that was clearly audible even in the noise of cold weapons hitting and magic casting.

Bababa-ba-bang一….

“What is the meaning of this?”

“T-that person! Is that person Kidd?!”

A strange sound is heard again. In a burst of noise that filled the entire second, someone from the Fibiel army seemed to recognize Kidd’s identity.

“Huuuu.”

His hand was faster than the eye.

What he was doing, neither Fibiel’s army nor Minis’ army, who was being attacked, didn’t know.

“What happened-”

Pikpikpik,pik.

Every time a long sound that fills the first second spreads, there are at least four shadows who fell down in Minis’ army. They also had holes in their foreheads.

“Stop the skill! Stop the skill!”


“I have already used it!”

“What?”

“T-That’s not a skill!”

The female warlock behind the Minis’ troops screamed. Stop the skill? It was in a state of being blown away. And a notification popped up saying he was clearly hit.

However, why didn’t he stop? Why don’t those lightning-like movements and unknown skills end their effects?

Even worrying on the battlefield is a luxury.

The light flashed once again from Kidd’s hand, which had suddenly blown away and reached the front of Minis’ army.

Baaaang-!

As soon as the index finger pulls the trigger, the thumb of the right hand and the index, middle, and ring fingers of his left-hand move in succession.

Even though they sealed the skill it was the reason that Kidd could not be stopped.

Revolver panning, which consists only of Kidd’s ‘hand skills’ rather than skills.

There was no one who could stop Kidd from running around and quickdrawing and panning four revolvers.

The movement of his hand that pulls the trigger, the wrist that turns the gun, and Kidd’s movements that avoids the magic and arrows of the Minis army while accomplishing almost all of the actions at the same time were like art.

And Minis had to pay the price for art appreciation. Six bullets from each of the four revolver, twenty-four bullets were fired in just over four seconds.

*****

“Pheeew……. This place is empty.”

It also took about 5 seconds or so for 24 Minis troops’ corpses to appear around Kidd. In the midst of everyone’s bewilderment, Kidd lifted his chin as he quickly cleared ip the four chambers of the revolver.

“Oh, ohhhh, charge! There was a space where the enemy’s defense lines are cut off!”

“Run, run! We have to make it impossible to close again!”

“Break the line of defense! Behind Kidd- Follow Kidd! Follow only Kidd!”

Toward him-! Watching Fibiel’s soldiers approaching, Kidd, who had finished reloading, shook his head “……As expected, war is annoying.”

Hwiik-!

He blew once again. Minis’ left wing, which formed the front line with Fibiel’s right-wing, could not defend the crack that Kidd had created.

****

“It’s really Granville.”

“Isn’t that a little dangerous? Our left and right wing are getting pushed back more and more…. The central army is holding up quite well, but Hwangryong and Pei Wu are not easy opponents.”

Hearing Ewin’s quiet admiration, Chiyou stuck to his side.

Ewin clenched his fists in the last place of the Minis army, as well as observing the situation at a glance.

“Are you saying what I want to say? The strangers in Fibiel are also dangerous, but the real danger is Granville. These basic tactics are what that damn bastard does best!”

“The fox of the prairie is saying weak things~ when you’re already great job blocking it.”

An hour had already passed since the battle began.

Even in Ewin’s eyes, the side annexes from the castle all over Minis had narrowed the distance considerably. However, the preparations, ‘weapons’ necessary for them to play an active role, have not yet arrived.

Why did the main camp spread in the shape of a wide wedge toward the enemy?

This was so that the center would not be pierced. A U-shaped formation that can embrace the enemy can surround the enemy as it is, but if the center is pierced, it can endanger your own base. They were in a favorable situation anyway. Ewin’s position was that there was no need to go down the difficult road.

Therefore, he formed an offensive formation so that the center is thick and had the first battle with Fibiel, as soon as they arrived, rapidly advanced the left and right flanks of the main unit, connecting with the flanking detached force, creating a huge encirclement!

This was Ewin’s strategy.

However, it was not enough. As Ewyn was concerned and Granville was confident, it was because there were a lot of Fibiel troops.

In other words, instead of encircling, there was a risk that each of the 100,000 separate units on the side will be individually defeated before the encirclement is formed.

In particular, in such an open formation, the strategic tactic of using troops is difficult to defeat Granville.

“So, so, are you still unaware of how urgent it is? When is my ‘hammer’ coming? Even if you have an anvil, you can’t do it without a hammer.”

Therefore, it was natural for Ewin to be impatient.

This is because, in order not to be subjected to Granville’s straightforward tactics, it was necessary to have a “hammer” that Ewin called, a weapon that would further capture Fibiel from the center so that Fibiel could not turn attention to the side’s annexes.

Chiyou took out a crystal ball again at Ewin’s question She shook her head and opened her mouth with a tone of regret.

“Alexander……. Unfortunately, his feet are tied up. It might take a little while.”

“Where?! Isn’t he the strongest among the strangers! Who can bind the feet of a dragon rider!”

“That’s it. Huhut, would you like to see it together?”

Chiyou held out the crystal ball. Inside the crystal ball, a black flee was seen running around the golden dragon.

“……Who is this?”

“At least nominally, Fibiel’s strongest.”

“Is he the strongest? Then? Can a guy like that stop Alexander?”

Chiyou smiled at Ewin’s question. The NPC Ewin was annoyed with her laid-back attitude.

“What is funny?”

“It’s funny. There’s nothing more fun than getting a new variable and trampling over that variable.”

Chiyou raised the crystal ball and enlarged the scene reflected inside it. When a video suddenly appeared like a hologram in the air, the surrounding users and NPCs were startled.

“Whoah-! What is that?”

“Gold Dragon? Isn’t that Alexander?”

“Wow! This is amazing! That person in black is So Easy!”

At a point just a short distance in front of them, the Fibiel and Minis forces were fighting for the survival of their own nation, but that was none of their concern. Chiyou, who quickly stole people’s attention, looked at Ewin with a proud smile.

“It’s not easy to see the fight between the first and second in the ranking. A.ny.way. We are allies on this path, we should support each other, right? Wouldn’t it be good if you also know the power of the ‘hammer’ you will use?”

“Hmmm…. I see. Let’s take a look.”

In an instant, the hologram gold dragon’s chest swelled.

Dragon Breath!

Even though it was a video, it looked so powerful that users unconsciously stepped back.

On the screen, Lee Jiwon’s face crumpled.

‘Crazy dragonfish bastard, once I double cast, I will lose a lot of mana!’

He couldn’t help but bite his lips. What came to Lee Jiwon’s body was two different colored particles, and as soon as blue and yellow entered, Lee Jiwon cast a spell.

“Summon: Huge rock, spot Raining!”

In an instant, a huge rock appeared in front of him, and thunderbolts rained down from the small rain clouds that only appeared on his body.

If it was attack magic, even a magic swordsman would never dream of double casting, however, fortunately, it was only normal magic. It was only possible if he sacrificed mana.

Beyond a rock that could cover a person’s body, the golden dragon finally began to exhale the breath it took.

PAAAAAAAAH-!

The dragon’s breath had nothing to do with mana.

It was a material attack with formidable violence. The power that simply cannot be stopped by shields or shield magic! If one blocked it with a shield, it will melt the entire shield, and if one used shield magic, it would dispel the thin barrier.

If it was a careless mage, his whole body would melt into the breath without realizing why his shield disappeared.

“Ahhhh, damned dragonfly, I will make you into a nuggeeeeet!”

Lee Jiwon threw his wet body behind the rock and curled.

Having fought with Alexander several times, he already knew the breath could be stopped with this ‘material’.

However, knowing and coping were two different things.

Lee Jiwon’s body, which was like a drowned mouse, became dry and withered. The dragon’s breath, which would remain even after melting even rocks, did not stop its momentum.

‘13，14，15! Fuck, isn’t it over? While getting to the max level, the total time for the breath had become much longer!’

In the tremendous heat, even on Lee Jiwon’s clothes, small sparks were created. Even if he didn’t check the character window, he could feel that his HP was dropping little by little.

Lee Jiwon quickly moved his hand to kill the fire.

But still, it was a dragon’s flame! The burning clothes did not die down easily. Lee Jiwon bit his lips once more.

It was not ordinary clothes, it was an item that raised the defense against the magic of all attributes to the maximum, but was it too much to withstand the dragon breath?

‘Should I use it now? No, no, I have to be patient. I have to wait for the moment he gets careless.’

(To be continued…)
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He thought he had the chance to win.

If he was lucky, he had a 51:49 chance, and 50:50 if unlucky. It was based on the data he had on Alexander so far.

However, there was a miscalculation.

He ignored Middle Earth’s first ‘Max Level’ too much.

Alexander’s ability had changed to the extent that he had raised all his expected attack power by at least 30%.

At least, thanks to Lee Jiwon’s calculations, skillful fighting style, and evasion-oriented movements, he was able to take his time so far and save his secret weapon.

If a normal user had blocked the front, Alexander would have already arrived at Minis’ base.

He would burn everything that stood in his way.

‘How do I catch up, how did he find that gold dragon- I can’t believe I couldn’t do anything!’

The flame that flowed to the side of the rock like a water wave finally disappeared. As soon as he confirmed that the fire, which was like a scene from hell, had disappeared, Lee Jiwon immediately took out a potion from his bag and drank it.

Not caring about the potion flowing into his mouth, he swallowed haphazardly, and a stern voice came through the sound of the dragon’s wings over the rock.

“Go back, Lee Jiwon.”

The gold dragon fluttered into the sky.

Between the wings of the gold dragon and its neck, Alexander sat like a heavenly knight.

“Cough, fuck. Savage bastard! Play fair and square, why don’t you fight me in a 1v1 match? You’re afraid of me, right? Nervous? Do you agree? Oh, wuss~”

Lee Jiwon poked his head on the side of a rock and looked at Alexander while spouting nonsense. If Alexander lowered his altitude a little, Lee Jiwon would be able to jump out immediately and use he secret skill!

‘Crazy bastard, even in such a situation, he’s still vigilant.’

He is too high!

Can I reach him with magic? It isn’t easy to jump there and swing a sword. It was difficult to catch the dragon’s movement just by using flight magic, and the mana consumption would be too great.


“I am a person who keeps order and justice. We do not fight for our own self-interest.”

“Ah, that’s right~ someone who doesn’t fight for self-interest is trying to kill me~Only when he had an advantage, he pretends to be a king and good, so he comes and goes. Do you admit it?”

Lee Jiwon knew how to trigger people.

However, Alexander had the dignity worthy of the nickname ‘The Great’ or ‘Great King’. He didn’t get angry. Even his expression didn’t change.

“I am an executor who protects justice, Bailephus’ only friend. I will not forgive you, Lee Jiwon, if you block my path to defending justice. No, Lee Jiwon isn’t the only one.”

“What?”

Alexander turned his head. He focused his eyes as he looked into the empty space.

“Whoever you are.. I will not forgive you if you stand in my and Bailephus’ way.”

“Who are you talking to? He rides a dragon every day and doesn’t have any friends, so he’s hallucinating now and talks to himself~” Lee Jiwon knew that Alexander was wary of him, but Alexander and his dragon, Bailephus, stared into the same spot.

It was as if they knew someone was watching them from that location.

“Turn it off. We will arrive soon.”

Alexander looked into the air once more and gave his voice strength. Lee Jiwon did not know who Alexander was talking to, but it didn’t matter now.

Seeing the gap, he already started casting.

‘I can cast Soul Link with Giga Spark. At the moment I touch-’

Behind the summoned huge rock where Lee Jiwon was hiding, a huge golden head fell. The eyes of the dragon the size of a human’s face would have already put an ordinary person’s heart to a stop as soon as they saw the eyes.

“This, Giga Spa-”

『Hold.』

Fortunately, Lee Jiwon wasn’t an ordinary person, but the gold dragon Bailephus, who raised his head, wasn’t an ordinary dragon either. Lee Jiwon’s body hardened helplessly in front of the dragon magic that did not even require casting.

It was in an instant that the game of tag that lasted for more than an hour came to an end.

Lee Jiwon tried to give strength to his whole body, but the status he received was not something that could be solved with passive resistance.


Alexander descended from Bailephus’ neck.

He was holding a long white lance. No, it was something far beyond the length of a lance.

Holding a giant spear about 7m in length with one hand, Alexander looked at Lee Jiwon.

“The crime of blocking the executioner’s path is heavy, Lee Jiwon.”

Alexander’s low voice rang out. His body, which had been aiming the spear, came to a sudden stop.

Alexander made eye contact with the gold dragon for a moment and remained dazed. They had a conversation that only the both of them could understand, like a whisper. Lee Jiwon couldn’t figure out what they were talking about, but….

A moment later, Alexander lifted his spear again and opened his mouth.

“……However, your role could not be ignored.”

Role? Lee Jiwon wanted to ask what he meant, but his move didn’t move. He blinked, but Alexander did not say anymore.

He rode on Bailephus again.

“Come back to me after reflecting enough. The time comes when justice must be enforced beyond human warfare.”

Alexander’s words were the king’s order. Lee Jiwon couldn’t even frown and just listened to Alexander’s arrogant words to the point where it felt bad.

“Let’s go, Bailephus.”

The gold dragon flew up. As if there was no real need for wings, the giant body defied the law of physics.

Even after the gold dragon shot toward the sky, Lee Jiwon did not know how to release the hold. All he knew was that he could do nothing but repeat all swear words endlessly in his mind.

***

“That’s why I can’t take it recklessly. He’s an interesting guy.”

There was no need to ask permission to turn off the hologram and remove the crystal ball Only Ewin managed to stand without bowing his head, and all the other users and NPCs around him had their eyes down.

“C-Cough. Then, he will be right here in an hour.”

“That’s what he said. It’s not good to provoke him unnecessarily. I really wanted to see, hmm, how he would take care of Lee Jiwon.”


Chiyou smacked her lips.

It would be a great source of income just to record the scene of the 1st-placed ranker killing the 2nd-placed ranker Having already removed the crystal ball, she did not know that Alexander left Lee Jiwon alive.

“What are you going to do now?”

“I knew for sure that he will be coming soon, so I have to prepare.”

Ewin scratched his chin and looked at the situation. After observing the movement of the troops for a long time, his mouth finally opened.

“Messenger! Contact our allies on the side, and send signals to the left and right flanks of the main forces as well! There’s no change in operation!”

“Understood!”

As the messenger ran out, Chiyou approached Ewin again.

“It seems your expression has improved. Right, because everything will be fine.”

“I will not believe it until I see it with my own eyes.”

“Oho, you earned the title Fox of the prairie because of that personality, right?”

“Kulkul, I am just a coward.”

A smile hung on the corner of Ewin’s lips, who had been anxious before. It was not time to prepare for the end.

The phase of the war was slowly but surely changing.

Granville’s strategy from the rear was quickly communicated to key figures through Ram Hwayeon, Fibiel’s soldiers took one step at a time and attacked clearly and thoroughly whenever there is a gap.

“To 11 o’clock-! Everyone in the 11 o’clock direction! Start breaking through the gap!”

Kijung, who got whispered by Ram Hwayeon, shouted loudly. It was a strategy where they would viciously bite if there was an area where the defense line had been weakened even a little. The sum of the backward direction and forward performance was exactly the same.

‘It’s almost over. We’re almost there.’

Now, even in Kijung’s eyes, the enemy on the far side began to appear. If it was that dust, there wouldn’t have been an hour left. They must be prepared to be attacked from the side sooner or later.

‘However, he has a lot with us as well! The enemy is definitely coming!’

Although the defense of the central army was strong, the defense lines of the left and right wings were pretty fragile.

The formation, which initially faced off with the wedge-shaped one, transformed so much that it became a U-shaped, where the Minis army wrapped around the Fibiel army.

‘Is Leeha hyung doing well? Ah, I can’t wait to show him this!’

Even as he thought about it, Kijung’s body reacted naturally.

He took his shield and charged, blowing off the body of a Minis soldier, and struck down the hand of the priest that was about to heal the soldier. Of course, the finishing touches were neatly done by Byulcho Special Forces that followed Kijung.

It was almost two in the afternoon, and the situation was clearly in Fibiel’s favor

Kidd, who was in the right wing, also felt it.

Halkrang, halkrang, after collecting the bullet shells, inserted new bullets to the revolver again, at a speed similar to using a ‘Speed Loader’.

“……Is it the way it ends, minis?”

Now, even if he didn’t go out on his own, Fibiel’s users have gained momentum. On the right wing, where Ram Hwayeon’s instruction came, other key personnels took the lead and broke the defense line.

The speed was so fast that even Kidd burst out laughing.

It was as if Minis’ left wing was running away from Fibiel’s right wing.

“At this rate, we could end the war before Alexander arrives – hmm?”

A spark came into Kidd’s eyes as he moved his body after getting the revolver. Kidd’s eyes were focused on a point that shone like shards of glass from the sky.

Kidd’s neck moved wildly. He immediately whispered to Ram Hwayeon.

“I think we will see it at last.”

Strength gathered at the hand that was holding the revolver. The shiny dot gradually began to take on a huge golden appearance.

A huge cheer erupted from Minis’ army.

The Great King has appeared——!

*****

Waaaaaaahh!

Minis’ cheers seemed to make the entire continent rumble.

Alexander and Bailephus, who flew past Minis’ command center, where Ewin and Chiyou were, flew over the sky of the battlefield where nearly 3 million troops were mixed.

“W-we messed up. Alexander has arrived!”

“Wow…… Bailephus is such a great dragon.”

“No, I don’t think Bailephus was originally a great dragon like that.”

Fibiel’s users were like sinners waiting for God’s judgment. The dignified figure of the gold dragon passed through the sky where magic or arrows could not reach.

It was so dignified that the people could not even move!

“Tsk, that’s crazy- Biyemi-nim! How are we supposed to deal with him?”

“Kikis, ‘fight’? That Alexander? Hmm, I have a rough idea, but-”

They would die as soon as they go. Kijung understood Biyemi’s words, but he couldn’t stand still.

“Where?!”

“Is he going to the commander-in-chief?”

Alexander and his gold dragon flying through the skies of the Minis army did not take any action.

But what if it did not stop?

The direction he was heading was obvious. What was the fastest way to end the war?

“Damn it, byeolcho get ready to use chain teleport! We will gather in front of Commander-in-Chief Granville’s tent!”

“G-guildmaster-nim……?”

“Don’t doze off! We have to go!”

Does it make sense that a battle that was on the verge of being won is overturned by one power? The problem was that he was the only person in Middle Earth who was maxed level, but Kijung did not back down.

It wasn’t just Kijung who thought that way.

“Everyone from Hwangryong, get back! We have to protect Commander-in-Chief Granville!”

Hao!

Pei Wu led Hwangryong corps.

“It’s cowardly to act like that as soon as you appear, Alexander.”

And Kidd pulled out a chain teleport scroll while pressing the brim of his hat.

Just in case something like this happened, they left a person beside Granville. The target they all teleported to was Ram Hwayeon, who was right behind the line!

As if they made a promise, all major elites of Fibiel gathered at Granville’s side.

It wasn’t just the Hwangryong guild, byeolcho, or Kidd.

Guild masters and vice-guild masters such as Rush, rushed to Granville.

Rankers, semi-rankers, and outsiders, there were more than 100 elite members of Fibiel gathered near Granville!

“Commander-in-Chief! Guardian’s Seal!”

“Hmmm.”

A blue film linking Granville and Kijung formed.

If it was the tanker Master Kay, more than 100 elite people recognized him as a talent, but that was not enough.

Only after 5 more tanks protected the Commander-in-Chief and 7 more healers applied buffs and shields behind them were they finally ready to face Alexander.

“Haa, haa.”

“Alexander is a user too! It’s not a big deal! Among us, there are many people who have played Dragon Raid! Just think of it like that!”

“T-the white dragon Raid that just entered adulthood? I don’t think it’s possible to compare that and the ancient-class gold dragon, right?”

Someone tried to raise the morale, but someone else’s objection instantly froze the atmosphere. The level of dragons that users could catch and the dragon that Alexander is currently riding was different.

The difference in ‘class’ went beyond simple level!

“S-shut up! Anyway- just now-”

Rumble- rumble- rumble-.

The users’ voices were scattered in the air. All that was left was the sound of the huge flapping wings that seemed to cover all senses.

It can stop as if frozen in the air, and it can roam through the air without wings, but the gold dragon Bailephus kindly showed off his presence to humans.

And on top of such a gold dragon, Alexander looked down at the things below like a messenger from God.

“Are you the Commander-in-Chief of Fibiel?”

“……That’s right.”

Granville took a step forward instead and looked at Alexander.

Just from the meeting of the eyes of the two giants, an energy that could not be concealed was radiated from the Fibiel base.

Alexander quietly stared at Granville.

The two looked at each other as if talking through their eyes. It was the Fibiel users who were around that found it difficult to have a quiet life.

Obviously, it wouldn’t be long.

Alexander and Granville exchanged glances for less than a minute, but within that minute, someone who seemed to have lost their weapon with their legs shaking appeared.

Just when he thought that he would rather have someone yell at him, Alexander finally opened his mouth.

“I order in the name of the executioner of justice, I, Alexander, and Bailephus. All Fibiel forces, leave Minis immediately.”

(To be continued…)
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“What? Where did he go? Why did he just pass by, Chiyou?”

“Wait! I’m contacting him right now. Just wait a minute!”

When Alexander was distracted by the notice given to the elite of Fibiel and Granville, ewin and Chiyou of Minis were also distracted.

‘That ignorant bastard! He should have come here first to listen to what we had to say!’

She was so flustered that a wrinkle appeared on Chiyou’s forehead for a while.

“Alexander! Come back now! Why did you go there first? Did you not hear what I said? Come back! All you have to do is slowly break the enemy’s front line!”

However, the whispers sounded hollow. Alexander did not answer.

‘If he kills the commander-in-chief, the war would be over. However, that wouldn’t be fun at all! It’s part of my plan, by my plan, for my plan!’

Chiyou bit her lips.

She was someone who was able to entice the fox of the prairie and carry out this grand operation from the start until now, a plan that was nothing short of a work of art.

Alexander literally became the brush for the “finishing touches” and had to finish the work!

As she managed to calm Ewin from leaving, Chiyou whispered to Alexander incessantly. Alexander was fortunate not to be able to block Chiyou.

“Alexander! I warn you again-”

“Shut up, bitch. Don’t ever say the cheeky word ‘warning’ to me and Balephus again.”

“Good. I understand, so come back. You haven’t forgotten your job, have you? Don’t you still have the 『contract』 with me?”

Chiyou knew how to properly hide her flusteredness. And she knew very well how to deal with people she couldn’t handle.

“Don’t worry, I haven’t forgotten. Because I came here to let them know-”

“So why are you telling them the information first that you didn’t even tell me properly!”

“This is the judgment of the Executioner of justice, Bailephus. It’s not a place for a spy like you to get in the way.”


‘Damned child! Just try to fail.’

Chiyou took a deep breath and cleared herself. She had been in touch with Alexander and thought she knew what kind of personality he had, but it didn’t change the fact that he was an annoying person.

“So when will you come back-”

“I will go now. Negotiations broke down.”

“Good, good. You should have done that earlier. I will talk to our Commander-in-Chief, so please come.”

Finally, Chiyou’s face relaxed. With a flowery smile, she reported to Ewin.

“Now get ready, commander.”

“Are you talking about the unity of mankind, Alexander?”

At the words of the man with his hat pressed down, everyone, including Alexander and Bailephus, turned their heads. Scratching his chin shyly, Kidd took a step forward.

“One justice that transcends national circumstances, one human that transcends nationality… It sounds like humans from all continents need to work together. Is that what you are talking about?”

“You are right. You’re the one with a soul pact with Luger.”

“Did that dragon tell you? Anyway, your story is more interesting than who I am. What do you want to say?”

“I can’t say anymore.”

Alexander shut his mouth. While Kidd was about to say something, Granville stepped forward.

“We can’t back down either. With a few of your unbelievable words, did you think this great army would back down? I heard that gold dragons are the wisest of all dragons, but does the dragon think so as well?”

The pupils of the gold dragon dilated and went back to normal again. Granville hesitated for a moment, but his spirit did not diminish at all.

“This war will not end unless you kill me, Alexander. Fibiel will never back down.”

Fibiel’s elites thought their commander-in-chief was provoking Alexander. However, Alexander had already said it. Even though he could kill him right away, Alexander did not kill Granville because ‘he is helpful to humanity’.

Did Granville think Alexander wouldn’t kill him? At least at this moment, it was true.

“I see, as expected. I get it. Negotiations broke down. I can end this war without killing you guys.”


“Do not underestimate Fibiel, you who ride a dragon.”

“What I want to say is-”

Flap- flap- flap-!

In line with Alexander’s words, the gold dragon Bailephus raised its altitude even further.

Even though the distance was getting wider, Alexander’s voice was clear and heavy.

“-Do not underestimate me, Fibiel’s commander-in-chief. I am the executor of justice, one who is willing to make some sacrifices for justice-”

Flap- flap- flap-!

The gold dragon soared into the sky and turned.

If he went back to Minis, the Fibiel’s elites would at least be able to catch a break while looking at the back of the gold dragon.

That was until Bailephus’ chest swelled.

“From now on, I will enforce justice.”

“Oh, ohh, al- Alexander is breath-”

It was precisely the breath of the gold dragon, Bailephus, that Alexander was riding. However, for Fibiel’s normal users, who had just reached level 140 to 150, it didn’t matter.

What did the swollen golden dragon’s chest mean? Who was the gold dragon facing? Only that was important.

“Extra Shield!”

“Sylph! Wind Shield for our party-”

“Tree of Protection!”

The users gathered together as they cast hastily. Like a pie, shields on shields, skills on skills, and magic on magic were stacked.

Only the elites who were near Granville understood the current situation accurately.

“Dodge! Quickly!!”


“Teleport Scroll! We have to scroll!”

“You must dodge yourself! You can’t stay like that!”

There were more than 10 types of magic that were stacked on top of each other, but the elites’ faces were still turning blue. Should they use magic or not? Other users who thought that the shield was a safe place also gathered there!

“Damn it, Biyemi-nim! Can we go over there?”

“We can’t go! No, if we go, Guild Master-nim will be in danger!”

“And most importantly…”

Hearing Kijung and Biyemi’s words, Tale’s expression sank. Although he had lived his whole life as a martial artist, Tale was honestly not sure what he could do in the face of an overwhelming power that transcends humans.

“It is late.”

Bwaaaaaaaa-

Bailephus’ breath, which could not be recognized as a flame breath except for the white flame at the center and border, tore through the air.

The breath that was sprayed on Lee Jiwon, in the state of “saving power”, was different from the gold dragon’s full-powered breath that tore through the ground. A breath that could only be used by a Dragon Knight that reached the max level together with an ancient-class dragon he is riding on.

Its light was so intense that it caught the eyes of all the 3 million users on the battlefield.

“Waah…”

“That’s a dragon’s breath…”

Even the users who hid behind the shield were mesmerized. It is said that beauty and strength coincided. At least for Fibiel’s current users, Bailephus’ breath was that.

It was extremely dazzling.

And then, they realized. Let alone 10, even if there were 20 to 30 layers of shield, ordinary magic could not stop it. No matter how strong a stone wall was built, it would melt into magma in the end.

One layer, two layers, and three layers, the users felt the heat as they were afraid it would break through.

Bowstrings broke, and the arrows caught fire. Clothes started to burn, and orbs started to melt away. Long-ranged dealers, mages, and healers were rather lucky.

Tankers and melee dealers with hard armor and swords were weak to heat. The pain they felt was like someone threw their body into a steamer.

That was what users with less than 50% assimilation rate felt, but what about those who have turned off the combat assistance system and raised their assimilation rate?

They felt pain enough to cause nightmares.

“We are all going to die.”

“We are, aren’t we?”

The breath breaking through the shield no longer caused fear. It had an offensive power that made people resign to their fate as they could not do anything about it.

It was a natural disaster.

The 473 Fibiel users who had gathered and the land they were standing on melted in an instant.

(To be continued…)
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“Oh… are you trembling, sir? This is the power of the ‘hammer’ you will be dealing with”, Chiyou managed to ask and collect the crystal ball. She knew that Alexander would not let it pass if he found out she had spied on him again. If she showed him this moment, she wouldn’t need to show him anything else. Ewin, the Fox of the Prairie, was trembling.

“The great war 20 years ago…”

“Oh?”

“It’s like the nightmare from 20 years ago. It’s uncomfortably strong.”

Is the NPC thinking about the demon king’s attack? Seeing Ewin’s smile, Chiyou finally regained her own smile.

 “But this time, that ‘nightmare’ is on our side. Isn’t that different? I’m waiting for your instructions, sir.”

“T-That’s right. Signal! Tell the left and right wings to move now! And raise the flare! Whip the flank more! We’ll build the last encirclement while our hammer crushes the enemy!”

“Understood! We’ve already made contact.”

Ewin knew he was going to be pushed back in the struggle against Granville. Therefore, he made the left and right wings fall back little by little.

In the situation where the Minis Defense Forces were united in an O-shape and the Fibiel forces were wrapped around them in a U-shape, his plan was to turn the left and right sides to stand together.

Of course, minis’ left and right wings, which have already been pushed back, can’t move forward like that. Because the Fibiel forces aren’t standing still.

Therefore, additional troops are needed. If a signal is given, they can run immediately.

Pheeeew… peong! Peong!

Signal flares fired high into the sky and the dust that had been slowly rising from both ends of the Minis and Fibiel frontlines rose even more intensely.

There were a total of 200,000 defenders scattered throughout Minis. What if Minis’ main forces move when 100,000 each from the left and right flanks are pushing Fibiel?

The U-shaped Fibiel army would turn into an M-shape.

“Chiyou, what about the rear?”

“They’re currently entering Minis. I told them to increase their speed.”

“Tell them not to rush. I just want the ‘fog’ and the troops to be well prepared.”


In that situation, Faust and Crowley will block the back.

A combination of alchemy and magic that even a semi-ranker couldn’t withstand properly, and an army of undead and golems that respawn even after death.

“Uhut, you’re not saying that we’re going to drive Fibiel’s forces to them instead of making them come to our rear, are you?”

The original goal was to close the empty back when they come. However, ewin said there was no need for that. Rather, it would be strategic to set them up early and drive the enemy toward them.

“It’s unavoidable. I can’t do anything with the hammer running like that. After about two more hours, ask them to open the ‘anvil’. Ah, and tell them to come back with the hammer too. Even so, shouldn’t he be consistent with the movement of the troops? I can’t control the hammer that left my hand.”

“I understand, sir.”

Ewin’s voice was fast, but it didn’t feel rushed at all. Rather, his voice was filled with thrill and excitement, and he was finally able to find leisure. The joy and pleasure when one’s plan comes true. A flexible strategy worthy of the nickname “fox of the prairie” was unfolding.

***

“H-how the hell am I supposed to stop that!”

“Commander-in-Chief! Give us instructions – give us strategical orders!”

“Aish, what about our mages? They could fly as well! I-”

“It’s a dog’s death!”

There was a commotion around Granville. The urgency of various users was mixed with the urging of the advisor, and an uneasy atmosphere was blooming in Fibiel’s base.

“Biyemi-nim, by any chance, can you match that skill? Sealing that magic.”

“Kiskis, I can’t. I can’t even reach that height, and my magic won’t be able to match the dragon’s mana.”

“Well, then what should we do? Should we just suck our fingers? Our- our allies are dying!”

Hearing Biyemi’s answer, Kijung shook his head. Alexander showed the strength that he had warned Granville about.

“Don’t underestimate me.”

The force that ordinary users couldn’t compete with was really close to the power of a god.

With just Bailephus flying low, users around level 100 flew in all directions. Just by waving the gold dragon’s tail, their vision turned black. When he roared, the mana he was casting scattered in the air, and when his eyes shot out, dealers stopped moving.


All of this was purely the power of a dragon’s “body”. What if magic was added to it?

Bailephus, while casting 15 flame strikes simultaneously and scattering the magic while diving, was nothing short of a missile

There was nothing that could prevent the attack of a modern weapon unfolding in the Middle Ages. Alexander’s spear was held high, and he looked down at the other users with an air of absolute power. This alone made it impossible for the other users to raise their heads.

“There is no concept of frontline”, said Tale, wanting to sigh. Biyemi managed to make a sound of resignation, but it was not a laugh out of joy. It was only a disguised laugh to soothe himself.

“It’s not just the frontline. There’s no concept of strategy or tactics… there’s none……. What’s the use of strategizing in this situation?”

Ram Hwayeon barely managed to hold back her desire to sit down. She had always been by Granville’s side and heard information about the strategy of the troops in this battle – how the left wing moved, how the right wing moved, and the gap between the central army, etc. It all lost meaning.

The frontline was broken by Alexander and Bailephus mercilessly from midair. One hundred, two hundred users evaporated in an instant, and the vacant space was filled with Minis troops.

The power of one person can change the battle map of 3 million people.

That was possible in Middle Earth.

Among the 100 million cumulative subscribers, the top ranker, Alexander, was sitting at the top.

“Is everyone just watching?”

It could be said that they were forced to resign. While everyone was staring blankly at Alexander, one man stepped forward.

“It’s interesting. I wonder what that person who is not here will say when he comes back and sees this.”

At those words, fireballs flew into the faces of some people. No, practically every elite knew who it is. Who that someone is that is not here was.

“Leeha hyung…”

Not to mention Kijung, Tale, Biyemi, Ram Hwayeon, and Pei Wu.

Regiment commander-level users and elites, including Ron, also knew. How would he be able to get here quickly?

“R-right. Arcane Sniper? Where is he?”

“He will come soon.”

Kidd leisurely maintained his revolvers. He made sure his ammunition was full. And checked his skill cooldown.


“He is coming soon? Kidd-nim, is eong-ah coming soon?”

“Of course. Because we have something in common.”

“I-is hyung-nim still in Dike beach?”

“It’s something you don’t know. When he finds out the situation, he will come here immediately.”

Even Kijung did not get a proper explanation from Leeha. At the time they separated, the only thing that Leeha was to protect commander-in-chief Granville from assassination.

“Is Leeha hyung coming?”

“Soon. Maybe right away – hmm?”

Crackle, crackle. Noise started to occur around him. Users who looked like they were just sitting and waiting for death began to prop up their equipment.

“We can’t show that person something like this, can we?”

“You are right, ron-nim. If we pin all our hopes on him and show him we are getting beat up like this, the reputation of our guild will suffer.”

“Patriot guild gather! Gatheeeeer!”

“Rush guild, gather. Even if he is ranked number one with an ancient dragon, aren’t we Fibiel’s elites? If not now, when will we have the opportunity to fight him!”

Ohhhhh-! That’s right! Shit, if Ha Leeha-nim comes!

We also have Pei Wu! And Kidd! It’s at least worth a try!

Kidd and Kijung smiled at the users’ shouts. A single person’s name, with an uncertain expectation of coming soon, inspired people’s morale.

Pei Wu and Hwangryong, ron and Rush, and Kijung and Byulcho joined forces. Even the masters of the large guilds and the outsiders, about 100 Fibiel users had the flames rekindled in their heart.

“Haa, now I’m ready to fight Alexander.

A person who could finally set the flame appeared.. The crowd’s eyes widened.

“Lee Jiwon!”

He wanted to come earleir, but he couldn’t.

The golden dragon’s language magic 『Hold』, was stronger than normal status abnormalities.

‘It was a status abnormality that lasted more than 6 hours.’

Lee Jiwon arriving at this time so quickly could be considered a miracle.

“So, mr. Hat man over there? When will Ha Leeha-nim come?”

“……You know him?”

“Well, a little? I owe him a debt.”

Lee Jiwon approached Kidd and shrugged his shoulder. The ones who were surprised were Kijung, Ram Hwayeon, and others who knew Leeha well.

‘Is Leeha hyung close with Lee Jiwon? Besides, what debt? Could it be that he helped Lee Jiwon? N-no, or is it a debt meant to kill? I don’t know what he does normally!’

Is Leeha acquanted with Lee Jiwon? He didn’t tell me! I wish I could have had him at Castle Dale at least once!’

Kijung and Ram Hwayeon, who can be considered as the closest to Leeha in their own way, did not know either. No one else, including Tale and Biyemi, could have known.

However, one thing was certain. As far as support was concerned, when Leeha’s name were mentioned, the morale of the people around them rose.

“That person is great, isn’t he?”

“As expected, the rumors about the siege must have been true.”

“With Lee Jiwon as backup, it would be worth a try, but when he gets here…”

Amidst the shouts of users, Lee Jiwon asked Kidd again.

“Don’t you know when he’s coming?”

“I don’t know, but he will probably appear beside me.”

“Hmmm, it’s like chain teleport- but you took everything into account, right ? Unless you’re you’re on the same area-”

“I know.”

The chain teleport between the Three Musketeers transcends the area limitations.

The principle of chain teleport was to go to the target’s location. The locations in the friend window were displayed separately for each area, but the location of the Three Musketeers was not revealed regardless of the area.

 ‘If he sees my skill has been activated, he will come immediately. Huu, this is the first time I miss Luger’s face.’

If Luger came here. Even if Luger approaches Kidd with the momentum to kill him, there would be no way he would miss a bigger target. His gigantic cannon will be directed at the Gold Dragon immediately.

“Lee- Lee Jiwon-nim, can we stop Alexander?”

“Of course! Lee Jiwon-nim alone is a match to Alexander!”

The users slowly approached Lee Jiwon. It was only this morning that he was beaten, but Lee Jiwon did not show any signs.

“If we can’t catch Alexander with this number of people, we should consider Middle Earth as a retarded game. Isn’t that so?”

A smile appeared in Lee Jiwon’s face, who still had a boying look Regardless of the authenticity of his words, the words of the 2nd rank in the game seemed reasonable.

“T-that’s right. Damn it, anyway, what kind of game would it be if only one person has it all?”

“Really. Let’s go! Let’s catch him, everyone!”

“Prepare for flame magic! Don’t even think of blocking the breath with a shield if you don’t want to die!”

Lee Jiwon gave strength to his voice.

They were elites, and a battle against Alexander was not easy. Lee Jiwon quickly and thoroughly explained the points that they needed to be careful of when fighting Alexander.

“And when I give you the signal, only attack Alexander.”

“Alexander? It’s not the gold dragon?”

Lee Jiwon nodded at the question.

“Yes. There’s a way to turn that dragon bastard into a nugget.”

Thinking about the shame from this morning, Lee Jiwon gritted his teeth. Watching the users’ morale boost and work together, Granville stepped forward as well.

“Good. I have no choice but to trust you.”

“What are you going to do, commander-in-Chief? The strategy-”

“The army is meaningless now. The rest of the troops should retreat first and organize their formation. We’ll have to prepare before Minis troops from the other side arrive. More importantly… Their attacks will not work without Alexander.”

The movement of Minis’ main camp was not noticed yet.

Normally, Granville would go into the enemy camp one step at a time, but this time it was different. Ironically, Alexander’s overwhelming force made Granville not fall into Ewin’s trap.

“At the time when those gathered here will fight with Alexander, I will give the entire army orders to retreat.”

“Understood.”

Ram Hwayeon, who had assumed the role of a messenger, quietly bowed and answered. Seeing this, the elites, including Lee Jiwon, set the signal.

“Let’s go!”

The best of Fibiel and the strongest of Minis and Middle Earth recognized each other. It was already 5 o’clock in the afternoon.

(To be continued…)
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“Run away, t-this way!”

“Run away?! Where!! How do you run away from a flying dragon!”

『Blaze』 Shwaaa hwarororok——…….

A rain of fire fell at the position Bailephus designated. Like a stream of water, an endless stream of fire poured down on the ground. There was no way to escape.

“Kkaaaaaak-! Save-”

It couldn’t even be said that it wasn’t a breath. There were those who blocked it, but the corpses that had turned gray in one shot were close to a hundred or so.

Ohhhhh-! Alexander! Alexander-!

As expected, “The Great” Alexander, the Monarch! The true monarch of Minis!

Seeing the enemy’s flesh burning, minis’ cheered eagerly. They faced their enemies for hours before Alexander appeared.

In other words, it means that no matter how bad the situation was, their level was similar to Minis users.

And hundreds of users at the same level as them were burned to death in an instant, meaning that Minis users could die like that, but they forcibly shook off such thoughts.

Rather than think about the difference in level between themselves and Alexander, it was better to think that their side was strong enough to get rid of the enemy.

Stop!

‘‘Huh??”

“F-Fibiel army, st-”

Shwoooook一!

“-op!”

Minis detected- the shouting man’s movement was faster than his shout. A person ran on top of Minis users’ heads as if flying.

“Hwangryong!”


The person who moved much lighter and faster than usual after receiving Fibiel elite’s buff was fourth in the ranking!

There was a golden energy in both of Pei Wu’s hands.

Paat-!

Pei Wu leaped into the air while stepping on the head of a Minis user’s head and had his neck broken. Although he was still a good distance away from Alexander, he was not flustered.

“Air step!”

Because he had a skill that allowed him to step on the air for a certain amount of time.

Shook, shook, shook!

As soon as the distance narrowed, Pei Wu reached out his hand. A dragon with a similar color to the gold dragon appeared from his fingertips.

“Interesting magic. Brandish.”

As Bailephus flew up again, Alexander swung his spear.

The long spear was swung over the gold dragon’s head, and it looked as if it was going to smash that golden that Pei Wu emitted, but the dragon seemed alive and avoided his attack.

“Hmm?”

『It’s just a chunk of mana. Eliminate the caster, Alexander.』

“Okay.”

Bailephus moved as he advised. No, he tried to move. If it wasn’t for the powerful energy that was shot from somewhere at that moment.

Baaaang—!

A single long shot was fired as if it would break every joint in Bailephus’ neck.

Pei Wu rushed in first to save time, and in the meantime, he quickly moved into the battlefield and charged! The one who shot was Kidd.

However, Bailephus was not shocked, except for a crunching sound effect. Normal attacks can’t even reach his dragon scale.

It was too difficult to break the shield that always surround it.


『He made a soul pact with Luger.』

“It’s because that guy is using a pistol.”

『Pistol?』

“No, nothing. Let’s focus in front.”

Kaaaaa一!

The gold dragon, which was connected to Pei Wu’s energy that was emitted from his fingertips, roared. The battlefield suddenly became quiet. An oriental gold dragon attacked the western gold dragon!

Although Bailephus flew toward the gold dragon, he did not miss his surrounding.

『Focus on the chunk of mana, Alexander. I’ll take the side, flame Strike.』

An instant cast that did not require any casting. As soon as Bailephus finished speaking, 15 flame strikes were created next to the gold dragon.

A powerful magic that was different from human magic in speed, as well as size, was shot.

“Rush Guild! Patriot Guild! Prepare to attack! Leave the Flame strike to Byulcho!”

Kijung exclaimed with his shield in front. No one asked how they would stop the fifteen magic. As the guild master of Byulcho took responsibility, they believed that he must have a way.

The reason Kijung was certain, Tale and Biyemi approached him.

“Kiskis, even if it’s us, it will be hard.”

“If we do it right, we can get five.”

“But there would still be 10 left.”

“We’re here as well! Don’t worry, Biyemi-nim!”

Another Byulcho tank user took the lead. Just looking at their numbers, there were far more elites from Rush and Patriot. If it was a ‘Raid’, they had the better lineup. The mission given to Byulcho was to protect them.

“Cooooome-! It’s so big! Even if we die, we must not let the magic get past us!”

Hat!


“Strengthen, anti-magic Shield!”

“Multiple poison resin! Ptoooo-!”

“Water Slash!”

Clang- clang- clang

Biyemi’s skill neutralization poison scattered in the air, and the flame strike, which was slightly weakened by the poison, was cut by Tale’s sword covered in water.

Kijung blocked 3, and Tale and Biyemi destroyed 5. And the other Byulcho tanks blocked one each using their bodies.

“Kaaak-!”

“H-Heal!”

Its power was enough to blur their vision even when they blocked using defensive skills.

In fact, the power of one shot out of the 15 flame strikes was that much, so it was no exaggeration to say that Byulcho was incapacitated from defending it.

“Thank you, byeolcho! Leave the rest to us, rush, Patriot, charge!”

Waaaaaaah!

The Rush Guild, led by Byron, and the elite of another large guild Patriot ran while the staff of the Byulcho staggered.

『It’s not even funny.』

“That gold dragon is keeping his distance. What are they up to.”

Even a life-threatening attack was just a nuisance to Bailephus and Alexander. There was no sense of crisis in their voice.

“Storm Bolt!”

“Guided Arrow!”

“Cruel Bash!”

“Twist Thrust!”

Ranged dealers rushed with support, and all of them were close to the semi-ranker level. Brilliant lights and effects filled the battlefield to the extent that ordinary users were left to stare.

“Waa……. Those on the top really fight different.”

“Isn’t Alexander in trouble?”

The Minis users were worried for a while, but they were underestimating Alexander. The wind created by the gold dragon’s wings flapping nullified the attacks. The chunk of mana was dispelled with just a look.

There were more than forty melee dealers rushing, but their attacks could not reach easily.

“They are such a nuisance.”

When Alexander moved his spear to cut them down, Pei Wu’s Hwangryong approached again.

Although it was not a real threat to the gold dragon, it was an attack that can be dangerous for Alexander. Therefore, both Bailephus and Alexander had to move here and there.

“What prevents us from enforcing justice is-”

『This energy?』

“-hmm? What’s going on, baile-”

Hwaaaak-!

The gold dragon suddenly roared into the sky. A few arrows chased after him from the ground, but the gold dragon’s eyes didn’t even look.

Hwangryong on the right and a group attack on the left, even the gold dragon was startled by the energy he suddenly felt.

『Magic Swordsman! It’s Lee Jiwon!』

It was the reason why the Fibiel elites risked their lives to attack! No matter how high they were on the ranking, the gold dragon couldn’t help but get distracted by the left and right attacks! It is because all users used their ‘flashiest’ skills! “Kyakyakya, it’s too late to notice now that he’s here, let’s go! You will regret keeping me alive, soul Link!”

Hwaaaa一!

Blue light flashed in front of Lee Jiwon’s body.

It was a light different from Leeha’s soul mate, which was a bear The monster Lee Jiwon found after a lot of research to beat Alexander!

Chupiiiiiii一!

The thing that shot through the air looked lig a dog.

Its hind legs were so developed to such an extent that its eyes and nose were not properly formed. The only thing on its face that looked fairly huge for a medium-sized monster was its teeth the size of a normal person.

“Take it out, hot Cheeks!”

The teeth of the giant frog-like monster that ordinary users were not even aware of touched the gold dragon’s skin.

Dragon scale, stronger than any other shield and thicker than any other armor, covered Bailephus, but Hot Cheeks’ teeth were enough to penetrate it and damage the dragon scale.

『—!』

The roar of the gold dragon spread across the battlefield. Alexander was the most bewildered.

“What’s going on, Bailephus.”

『Mana Blending! It’s a mix of mana, you damned magic swordsman! It would have been better to kill you after all!』

The gold dragon tried to tear off Hot Chicks that was hanging from its chest but to no avail. Because the mana would get tangled if it was taken off carelessly.

“Mixed mana? So, you can’t use magic?”

Bailephus did not answer, but Alexander was aware of the situation. Because magic started pouring out from the place where the gold dragon had been blocking with dispel just before. 『I will get out of here first.』

He tried to quickly raise his altitude to ensure safety, but the one in front of them was the ‘magic swordsman’.

“Fly!”

Shhhoooook- Rising to the sky, Lee Jiwon lifted his sword.

“Kuhahaha, this is it! I have been waiting for this, isn’t it finally time? Sol Blaze!”

Hwarururuk一.

Black flames wrapped around his black sword.

The attention of 3 million Fibiel-Minis users concentrated on the gold dragon soaring through the sky being followed by a user in black, and a gold oriental dragon chasing after them as well!

Although soaring through the air, the speed of the gold dragon, which had to fly with pure wing power, not magic, was not fast. Its distance from the rising Lee Jiwon was gradually narrowing down.

The smile did not disappear from Lee Jiwon’s mouth.

After all, the correct answer was not to forcefully use soul link in the morning, he thought he would have a chance!

“I got you, alexan-”

The moment Lee Jiwon swung his black sword was when the sun was going down.

Babam-!

Suddenly, a fanfare resounded in the minds of all users.

Daaaaaak! “What is this!”

A system message that forced a hologram to appear like an achievement window. As Lee Jiwon’s eyes were suddenly covered, Bailephus twisted in the air.

The black flame from his sword shot into the air, barely passing under the gold dragon’s wings.

“Uwaaaak-! No! No way!!”

While Lee Jiwon struggled, Bailephus had already turned around.

『Let’s retreat, Alexander.』

“Hmm.”

Alexander nodded. A fanfare echoed in his head. Besides, it was just at the time when an urgent call from Chiyou, a spy whom he disliked, had just arrived.

“D-don’t go! Tsk! Are you scared? Don’t go, Alexander-!”

Lee Jiwon cried out, but couldn’t chase anymore. The attention focused on the match between Alexander and Lee Jiwon was no longer there. 

‘The notification window visible to ‘all users’ had stolen their attention.

『Temporary truce between Kraven and Fibiel has been established.』

『Truce Period: 30 days』

『Agreement Signed by: Fibiel’s Side – Naval Commander Albert Burke, deputy: Musketeer Ha Leeha

Kraven’s Side – Commander-in-Chief Howard Drake』

Should it be called Good Timing or Bad Timing? It was because of Leeha’s performance that caused Sol Blaze, a non-targeting skill, to fail.

(To be continued…)
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“Deputy……? L-Leeha hyung-!”

“Ho, hooo, I can’t! This – What the hell is this…”

“Kiskiskis, he really isn’t an ordinary person!”

Uwaaaaah-! As expected of Ha Leeha-nim!!

This is amazing! It’s over! One side of the war is over!!

Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi could not hide their surprise, and the members of Byulcho cheered.

“……What do you mean truce? How the hell did he do it……”

Kidd shook his head and pressed his hat tightly. The thought that Leeha had taken another step made him a little impatient.

“Hmm, but I also checked the Crimson Geckos’ performance I will take off the skin of the gold dragon.”

His pride was so strong that he grumbled at the man who couldn’t hear him.

It wasn’t just the people near Alexander. This ‘notification’ window appeared to everyone to the extent that it was also seen by Alexander and Lee Jiwon.

Of course, all users around the world saw it. They read the message. They also understood what it meant. However, it was not easy to accept.

It was only natural for everyone to speculate.

“Truce? Fibiel-Kraven isn’t going to war anymore?”

“What does it mean 30 days? No, if Kraven ran away, does that mean we’re the only ones left?”

Fibiel users were overwhelmed with joy, but Minis users were really confused.

Alexander, who seemed likely to win, suddenly retreated. In addition, wasn’t it at the same timing of the truce between Fibiel and Kraven? Could Minis be at a disadvantage?

“Hey, then, will the rankers from Dike Beach come here?”

“That’s great! Isn’t Ram Hwajung there right now?”


“If Ram Hwajung joins…… if we hold out here, then won’t our odds of winning increase? Wow, it came out of nowhere. What happened?”

Fibiel users were excited.

Is the war situation that had been worsening since the Marching Plains going to be overturned again? Was is possible to occupy Minis’ capital like this?

However, the expectations of the users and the judgment of NPCs were different.

Granville also heard the news through Ram Hwayeon, but he wasn’t in a hurry. He ordered the entire army to retreat.

Boom- boom- boom-.

Drums sounded from both sides. Minis panicked as expected, and Fibiel got impatient as expected. However, ewin and Granville’s first order was to retreat and reorganize.

“Guild master-nim! Retreat! Let’s get back to the main camp!”

“Oh, ah, yes. Let’s go…… Let’s go.”

Kijung was stunned. What did Leeha do in Dike beach alone? Seeing that the quest was completed, it was certain that Leeha had succeeded in the quest.

‘Wasn’t it 20 days? Or maybe other conditions were met? Did he kill 4 admirals?’

A man who had never been on a boat, on the first day he arrived at Dike Beach, went and killed four admirals who were hiding.

‘In one day?’

It had already been done, so he had no choice but to believe it, but it was natural to have questions. Not just Leeha, but everyone else.

“Anyway…… That person really makes people worry.”

“What did you say, Hwahong’s guild master?”

“Ah, n-nothing, commander-in-chief-nim.”

“You looked relieved even though our army needs to retreat.”

“No way. No way.”

Ram Hwayeon waved her hands at Granville’s question.


“I see. Hurry up, gather the people.”

“Yes, understood.”

Granville turned to the front again. Everyone was doubtful of Leeha, but Ram Hwayeon quietly clenched her fist and rejoiced.

If Leeha-ha knew that there were two more women who were surprised and happy at the same time in addition to Ram Hwayeon, his mouth would have stuck in his ears.

“What happened?! Kraven made a truce with Fibiel!”

“T-That-”

“Didn’t you say you were confident, chiyoooooo-!”

“Drake- I am sure Drake-”

“Are you telling me it’s Drake?! Yes, drake. But what is this? That Drake himself made a truce with Fibiel! Didn’t you say that Fibiel’s navy is overwhelmingly inferior? Say something!”

Ewyn was enraged.

In front of Minis’ commander-in-chief, who shouted as if all of the things he had been putting up with will explode, Chiyou could not say anything.

Although Ewin gave instructions himself, it was Chiyou who provided information and advice.

“I’m sorry, sir.”

“Musketeer Ha Leeha! I knew it, I knew it! Didn’t I tell you? W-we should have been careful of that damned bastard. Whatever the case, we should have dealt with him and then proceeded with the plan!”

“It is my fault.”

“It was our carelessness! We can no longer be careless! Ha! It’s not even funny. I knew it since he reminded me of the great war 20 years ago, didn’t I tell you? Let’s deal with him first!”

“I’m sorry.”

Chiyou couldn’t help but bow her head. In fact, ewin once told her. 

‘He reminds me of the Three Musketeers 20 years ago. Be careful. He should never be underestimated.’

Of course, Chiyou never underestimated Leeha.


Even though she did not underestimate him, Leeha, who signed the truce agreement with Kraven in one day, was just too good.

“What does that matter?”

“Well?”

“Yes?”

“I asked what it had to do with the truce between Fibiel and Kraven. We can end this war alone.”

“Hmm, as soon as Bailephus’ magic is sealed, you tucked your tail and ran away-”

Shiiiin一.

Alexander’s spear, which was over 6m tall, shortened in an instant and changed to regular length. The point of spear was pointed at Chiyou’s neck.

“The moment you open your mouth, you will lose your head.”

“Haa! Why do the people in Fibiel have the right to leave and I don’t? Don’t you belong to Minis?”

Even Alexander’s threat did not work on Chiyou. It was because she also heard Alexander talk to Fibiel’s elite users and Granville.

At this point, Chiyou barely noticed.

‘This man is trying to rally the people now. Only the best of the best.’

Then he couldn’t ignore her.

He couldn’t touch the NPCs that can’t be revived once they died. He actually opened her mouth in protest to Alexander’s warning, and she could tell by looking at the spear.

“……We must end the war.”

“I agree with that, but, then, why did you not cut Granville’s neck?”

Ewin raised his eyebrows and Alexander shut his mouth again.

“Damn it, the hammer had arrived and he refuses to hit the enemy’s neck, so that’s a problem too. Chiyou! How about the anvil?!”

“We started encamping at Fibiel army’s rear. About 5 hours away.”

“Good, Granville was able to get out, and the flanks couldn’t even move, so let’s proceed slowly.”

Ewin nodded and looked at the battle map.

According to the original strategy, and because of the nature of Granville, Alexander should have come in more straightforwardly.

The flank forces aimed at that gap, and Ewin made the lion-shaped cover he had originally envisioned, and in that state, Faust and Crowley would arrive, complete the encirclement and Alexander would finish it.

Everything went awry when Granville pulled out Fibiel’s forces.

If the Fibiel army unites and reorganizes, it would be meaningless for Minis’ flank to join the main army. Therefore, ewin immediately halted the advance of the flank forces.

In other words, it meant that Minis’ main forces currently are in O-shape, and Fibiel forces are gradually reversing their U-shape and are reorganizing it to a vibration-proofing close to □-shape.

And Minis’ detachment from both ends of Fibiel’s army kept them in check, and Crowley and Faust were forming their camp 5 hours away behind Fibiel.

“Hey, Alexander-kung.”

“ Hmm?”

Alexander’s eyes raged at the unpleasant way he was called. The Fox of the Prairie did not care.

“I don’t know what you want, but you’ll have to cooperate with my plans to get what you want. You want to end this war as quickly as possible. Don’t you? Besides, because the gold dragon is temporarily incapacitated, you won’t be able to communicate…”

Ho, you have to use force at times like this. It would be difficult to hold back.”

“Hmm.”

Alexander knew. Because his closest friend told him.

He has warned the whole flight about the dangers of the soul link Lee Jiwon’s used, and the dangers of his soul mate.

‘If there was no notification window-’ Lee Jiwon’s strongest skill would have hit him directly. He was at max level, but he didn’t know how much health he would lose if he got hit with that skill. Considering even Hwangryong floated in the air, if that skill had hit him, there would surely be a follow-up.

“Are you saying that we have to prepare for war for peace?”

“That’s right. Human history tells us that it is rather the fastest way.”

Because of the advice of the gold dragon, Fibiel’s elites have been spared.

‘Because I need their strength. However, when the gold dragon and his life were in danger, Alexander could no longer compromise.

“I will cooperate.”

“Okay, so then…… Chiyou?”

“Shall we prepare right away?”

Although Ewin did not say much, she already understood the strategy. Even Ewin, who had been gloomy all the time, softened his expression a little at those words.

“Haha, as expected, your fox-like head is as good as mine. You can’t fail this time.”

“I will make sure of it. I don’t think they’re expecting it yet. Even that person you are wary of……he would not be able to come back immediately.”

Minis’ final strategy was being prepared to break through Fibiel’s army. And even Chiyou did not know. It was also outside of Ewin’s expectations. The existence of a skill that surpassed the mana barrier.

“Advisor.”

“Yes, sir.”

“Check the damage and number of remaining troops immediately.”

“Understood.”

When the advisor NPC called the division commander NPCs and formed a line, Granville looked elsewhere.

“Byulcho Special force.”

“Yes.”

“Can you explain what happened?”

Granville’s voice was bright but calm. The truce with Kraven was certainly good news for him. The only problem was that he couldn’t understand what happened.

“T-That- oh…”

The sad thing was that even Kijung did not know. When Granville called him, he hesitated, but I couldn’t figure out how it happened.

The eyes of all the elites gathered in Granville’s tent focused.

Of course, byeolcho members also paid attention to each and every move of Kijung, Lee Jiwon, Ram Hwayeon, Pei Wu, and Ron.

“Come to think of it, your captain is nowhere to be seen.”

“That’s…… right. Leeha hyung-”

Shwaaat一!

Then suddenly, light flashed inside the tent. Everyone drew their weapons at the sudden activation of magic.

In this critical situation, magic was activated!

“Uh, hmm?”

“Who are you!”

“It’s dangerous, commander! Guardian Seal-”

Even Kijung, who was in front of Granville, raised his shield and cast a skill as the silhouette beyond the light floundered, revealing a familiar figure.

“Haa, haa, Alexander! What about Alexander?!”

The light sound pulling the bolt with a click spread through the tent.

In the place where the light slowly disappeared, a person restlessly moved his eyes and touched the curiosity of the people gathered.

“Kidd! Where did Alexander go-”

“Of course, he retreated. I remember you telling me that you will come as soon as you saw the skill activate…”

As Kidd spoke in a sarcastic tone, the vicious momentum that had gone up until now had gone, and the man revealed his foolish appearance.

“T-That- I came here from Dike beach as soon as I saw it- no, but…… What are you all doing here? Didn’t Alexander show up? Did he go back? How about our forces?”

Leeha looked around and tilted his head.

“Leeha-hy-”

“Ha Leeha!”

Before Kijung could speak, there was another person who showed her feelings.

Red hair ran across Granville’s tent.

Her hair, which sparkled and twinkled under the light magic, went into Leeha’s arms without hesitation.

“Kuuooook-! R-Ram Hwayeon? Why-”

“Leeha hyuuuuung’!

”

“Ha Leeha-kun!”

“Kiskis, showing up late and pretending to be the host!”

“That’s right! The truce agreement with Kraven, what have you done, Ha Leeha-nim!”

And after Ram Hwayeon, the Byulcho members rushed out. Seeing the people expressing pure joy by embracing Leeha as they literally crushed him, he didn’t know whether to laugh or cry.

“I-It’s suffocating!”

Leeha had returned to Minis. It was a situation that Chiyou and the Minis army did not expect.

(To be continued…)
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“Hoo…… Is that really true?”

“That’s right. By now, commander Burke will be leading the army towards Marching Plains.”

Leeha reported what happened in Dike Beach. Granville nodded his head with an impressed expression.

“Not only defending Dike Beach but also making strategic decisions…. You are indeed the captain of Byulcho Special Force.”

“You’re overpraising me. Even if I hadn’t told him, commander Burke would have still done it. He seemed very close to the commander-in-chief.”

As Leeha smiled wryly, Granville understood his meaning. If they were not close enough, how could someone make fun of the commander-in-chief and call him old man? And what was the relationship between the two NPCs?

“Okay. Then we will retreat further as soon as the sun rises.”

“Yes. Perhaps the enemy intended to follow us with troops from Faust and Crowley and Marching Plain. Now it’s the opposite. With them in the middle, burke and our army could do a pincer attack.”

Of course, there was a problem with the marching time, but Leeha believed in Burke.

Burke won’t run out of time, even if it’s a night march. They will definitely be here in two days, maybe three days at the latest.

“It was hard. Let everyone go back and rest.”

Granville nodded and let everyone leave.

Except for a few NPCs, all the users came out and gave Leeha a word of thanks.

The truce signed with Kraven certainly had a different weight than the Rising Sun or Hwahong vs Byulcho Alliance. The guild masters of the large guilds who participated in this war also looked at the text clearly.

Besides, what did they look like?

As soon as they saw the phrase, the gold dragon turned around! In fact, the presence of the person who made Alexander, the number one in the ranking, give up was clearly engraved.

“To be truce agreement deputy, I was genuinely surprised.”

“Aigoo, it was nothing. I was just lucky.”

“If you don’t have a guild yet, come join our rush-”


“W-what are you talking about, ron-nim! Leeha hyung is actually a member of Byulcho!”

Ron secretly suggested Leeha to join their guild, but he smiled and stroked his mustache.

“It’s a joke, it’s a joke.”

However, he couldn’t hide the sad exexpression on his face. At the end of the greetings, a black-haired man covered in darkness approached Leeha.

“How are you going to take responsibility?”

“Huh? What? What are you talking about, Lee Jiwon-ssi?”

“How are you going to take responsibility? I missed Alexander because of you!”

“B-because of me? Didn’t he come and leave?”

“What! I used the ‘method’ that Leeha-nim taught me! Anyway, I was able to get it! I was able to do it! What will you do when he shows up again!”

“Ah…”

He caught a glimpse of it in the midst of the chaos. Fibiel’s elites joined forces to stop Alexander.

To borrow Kijung’s words, a ‘Bif Frog’ bit the gold dragon’s chest, and at that point, Leeha’s truce notice was displayed, and Alexander was said to have turned his tail and fled.

And Leeha could roughly guess what that ‘Big Frog’ is.

‘Soul Mate. He used the Soul Link skill. Anything to neutralize the gold dragon would be huge. No, that’s not the problem. The problem is…”

Most of them thought that Alexander turned back because of Leeha’s performance, but Leeha did not see it that way. He must have retreated because Lee Jiwon’s attack was truly fatal.

Therefore, he knew why Lee Jiwon was making a fuss. It was a skill that could not be used consecutively.

“How many hours do you have left?”

“How many hours! I can’t use the skill for a while! There are 22 hours left!”

Its cooldown was 24 hours. Until tomorrow evening? What if Alexander appeared before them?

‘As expected, according to Kijung ‘it was a fight between a human and ants’, is it possible to stop that Alexander?’


It’s not possible.

Lee Jiwon made a fuss with a sullen expression. It was also one of the secret moves that he had been hiding. Even if the cooldown ends, Alexander and the gold dragon Bailephus were unlikely to get caught again.

“Does Alexander know?”

“How could that arrogant bastard know? But that dragonfly bastard beside him should have told him that was nothing more than a cheat. After all, it is a real cheat.”

Lee Jiwon sighed.

How regretful was he that he missed his long-awaited chance to kill Alexander? However, compared to his usual words and deeds, Lee Jiwon’s murmuring at Leeha was very weak.

‘Tsk, I’m sure this person is great. Maybe there’s another way.’

It is because, in Lee Jiwon’s eyes, Leeha’s performances were beyond imagination. The agreement with Kraven was unimaginable even for him.

Although he did not participate in the war, he was busy running all over the country to catch Alexander’s tail. It was a place mixed with confusion and desire.

Someone had effectively ‘closed’ one of those campaigns!

‘Soul Link skill too, it appears like he is someone who has a lot to hide.’

Perhaps if someone else had interfered with Lee Jiwon’s ‘final strike’, they would not have been able to survive. That person would have been killed on the spot.

After hearing Lee Jiwon’s story, Leeha looked around and asked Kijung as if he suddenly remembered something.

“Kijung-ah, what did you say earlier?”

“What?”

“Alexander and the gold dragon had something to say to Granville and the elite users. Even if he could kill them, he wouldn’t.”

It was a story before Lee Jiwon arrived. Kijung clapped his hands! He answered with a clap.

“Ah, yes. Even Kidd-nim knew about it-”

Step, step, step.

The sound of footsteps could be heard over the Byulcho members. With his hat brim pressed deeply, Kidd appeared just in time as if he had been listening from somewhere.


“Have you met Alexander?”

“Me? No.”

“At that point, he certainly had the power to kill us all, but he didn’t.”

“Hmmm……. Why?”

“He talked about the unity of mankind. There was a deep nuance that we had to work together with everyone.”

“Human Alliance? So suddenly?”

As Leeha tilted his head, Kidd shrugged.

“I don’t know as well. but… … . He has someone deeply involved in this worldview, so I can only guess that he knows something.”

“……Gold Dragon.”

Leeha made an assumption.

‘Even Lee Jiwon could only grit his teeth and call it a scam. What if he could provide information about Middle Earth in combat abilities and general information as well? In effect, it means that he is using something similar to Madam Ju. No, it means that he can ride that Madam Ju and take advantage of it 24 hours a day. If so, information that has not been revealed yet, what kind of quest would it be related to?’

Leeha almost laughed for a moment at the thought of riding Madam Ju, but that was what it meant in direct comparison. And if the gold dragon had that kind of ability, it basically meant the same.

‘It’s really a scam.’

Madam Ju only knows information about the human world, but the gold dragon knows about the entire worldview of Middle Earth.

“The wisest dragon. The leader of the metal dragons, the executioner of justice who protects the good…”

“Huh? What is it?”

“It refers to the gold dragon. It is much higher than general raid dragons. If is such an existence, it is only natural if it knows something that users don’t know yet.”

“Hmmm……. So, are we safe?”

Kijung butted in, but neither Kidd, Leeha, nor Lee Jiwon agreed.

If the gold dragon is really trying to keep them alive, in a way they have one more life in this war. Except for Alexander, there was no one who could threaten Fibiel’s elites.

‘But it can’t be-‘

“There’s no way. That hat guy has a point, but things have changed completely from before.”

Lee Jiwon’s words were faster than Leeha’s thoughts.

Kidd’s eyebrows twitched for a moment when he got called a hat guy, but even Kidd couldn’t say anything.

“I’m the best! Perfect! I used to be able to say that cheeky remark before, but it is different now. I almost fell behind, and here, Ha Leeha-nim signed a truce with Kraven. Besides, he even teleported across the entire battlefield. Well, maybe you didn’t know when you came- but Alexander must have felt a little intimidating, right?”

The accurate analysis came out one after another but it was from someone who looked childish that it didn’t fit the words.

Kijung nodded his head and said, “As expected, the second place in the rankings is different.”

He exchanged whispers with Tale. Leeha thought the same thing. Lee Jiwon’s words ignited Leeha’s thoughts.

“Lee Jiwon is right. Besides, there’s a schemer that weaves the entire Middle Earth world on their side. What would she do if she heard about the truce between Fibiel and Kraven.”

There was a time when her identity was unknown.

A person who can also connect to a huge information network. If she did, she would quickly predict how the Fibiel forces across Dike Beach would move.

So what would she do?

Leeha’s lowered eyes suddenly enlarged. He didn’t have time to be like this!

“Night attack! Wake everyone up right now! Don’t just retreat! Kijung-ah, report to the commander-in-chief Granville and prepare for battle!”

Night attack.

The attack will begin with Alexander in the lead!

“We couldn’t see, where are we going to retreat?”

“I don’t know. Are you telling us to recklessly go to Marching Plains, how could we go in the middle of the night?”

“Hey, it’s better than getting burned to death. Have you seen Alexander? He was great.”

“Is he that great?! I’d rather log out before joining the Minis campaign. He was that strong. I can’t vainly die.”

“Still, you have recovered a lot of your contribution, right? Now, just by surviving, you also get a contribution.”

“Damn it, if it wasn’t for that quest, I would have already left.”

Fibiel’s users grumbled as they walked through the dark night. In the previous battle, the numbers of both Fibiel and Minis’ troops decreased considerably, but they still had a large army of over 1 million.

With the Minis’ capital on the horizon, Granville gave a quest different from usual. Instead of attacking for a few days or killing people, they have been rewarded contributions by surviving every day!

It was a mouth-watering reward system for users who had negative contribution points due to several failed quests. In addition, the time in real life and the time in Middle Earth are different, so the longer they log in, the more they could reduce the negative contribution.

In other words, logging out was unthinkable. Of course, all of this was Middle Earth’s way of creating a grand and epic battlefield… As expected, Middle Earth was well-versed in how to deal with users.

And the elite users who formed the raid were hiding in various places in the Fibiel Formation, retreating to the Marching Plains.

Alexander was not an enemy that moved on the ground. Being vigilant would not catch his movement.

“Is he really coming, hyung?”

“Yes. Certainly. There’s also the attempt to assassinate the commander, Granville. There’s no way someone who thought like that would let the opportunity pass.”

“Well, I guess you’re right.”

“Why? Are you afraid?”

“Me, scared? H-Hyung, you haven’t met Alexander, have you?”

“Not yet.”

“He’s scary…. Can I say it’s scary??”

Kijung unconsciously put strength into the hand holding his shield. Seeing his dongsaeng’s different state of tension than usual, Leeha also felt a chill in his back.

All the Byulcho members around Kijung agreed with his words, even Biyemi.

“The really scary thing is that the fear was taken for granted.”

“What?”

“The thought that I was terrified, that he was stronger than me, and that I was going to die so naturally that I didn’t have the heart to resist. I mean.”

“Are you really Kijung?”

A tank that always blocks the enemy’s attacks in front. It meant that even Kijung, who has raised his shield facing countless enemies in the past, felt uncontrollable fear.

“……But it’s okay. Because I experienced it once. Flame strike, well, it’s not a big deal. I can block up to three shots.”

“Kiskis, of the fifteen magic shots.”

Biyemi smiled at Kijung’s words. It was what he saw anyway.

The gold dragon Bailephus would be able to cast 15 flame strikes 20 times in a row.

The mood brightened for a moment by mixing Biyemi’s jokes with Kijung’s self-assuring words.

“Aw, hey, isn’t it really scary for Byulcho Special force to say things like that?”

“Huhuk, it’s okay. Eong-ah doesn’t need to worry about it.”

Kijung paused for a moment and looked down.

“Isn’t hyung going to do something again? Isn’t that what you talked about with commander-in-chief Granville, Kidd, and Lee Jiwon?”

“Oh, well……. We talked about the strategy, but-”

“Okay, then. Even if I die, I will protect you.”

“Kijung-ah…”

Kijung’s words were simple. However, Leeha understood because they were family. The weight of his resolve.

“Isn’t that the mission originally given to Byulcho Special force, Leeha-kun? If Alexander came over there, Leeha-kun came to us. This time, I won’t be hit as recklessly as before.”

“Kiskis, whatever Ha Leeha-nim does, I will have to run with you in my arms. Because you’re still slower than me, who is a magician.”

Their belief in Leeha was buried in Tale and Biyemi’s words

The mission of the Byulcho Special force was to protect Leeha.

He felt that heavy expectations were being put on him, so he felt burdened, but he wasn’t tactless enough to show it.

‘To the point that people say… Alexander is great.”

No other thoughts were needed. Most importantly, he needed to think. It’s his job to figure out a way to deal with that person.

The sniper only looks at the target.

(To be continued…)
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Kuung-! Kuung-! Kuung-!

The sound of war drums resounded from Minis’ army.

Following Chiyou and Ewin’s quick orders, they also forced a night attack. Alexander flew over the heads of Minis’ soldiers and advanced in front of them breaking the darkness.

 『As expected, humans are interesting. Why are you fighting like this without being able to see through the night.』

“Bailephus, we do not intend to break through the darkness because the human eye is not good at night.”

『What do you mean?』

“We are only trying to break through the minds of the enemy. That is human.”

『As expected of an arrogant race. Trying to dig up the thoughts of an invisible enemy while not being able to see in front properly.』

“That is human nature.”

Shyuuuu一!

Alexander sat on Bailephus and talked with the gold dragon in the night breeze. It was always a pleasure to enjoy the privileges that only you could enjoy on Middle Earth.

『I have no interest in human nature. I just want to end this pointless war as soon as possible.』

“You and I- for the sake of justice.”

『Yes. In order to achieve that goal, the only opponent that we should focus on is the magic swordsman, Lee Jiwon.』

Bailephus’ voice grew louder.

The concept of Soul Link’s skill was unknown, but both Alexander and Bailephus knew that he was a dangerous person.

“……But he is the strongest man in the human world. Do we not need his strength for our purposes?”

Alexander’s participation in this war was not just because of his contract.

This was to prevent humans from getting weakened by something that Bailephus discovered. In other words, he participated because they had to prepare while preserving the strength of humanity, that is, the strength of the ‘users’ as much as possible.


It was contradictory to say that Lee Jiwon would be killed in order to end the war after participating in the war with the grand purpose of preserving humanity’s strength.

“Even in the words of that spy and the commander-in-chief, there’s no word to kill Lee Jiwon. All I could do was to get rid of as many Fibiel troops as possible. I can also kill any number of low-level users. Bailephus, there’s nothing to fear while I am with you. However, there’s a deep chasm in the heart of humans and they hate each other.”

For Bailephus and Alexander’s purpose, low-level users were not helpful. It meant that he could kill any number of them. However, what if he killed Lee Jiwon once?

Alexander was concerned about that.

Lee Jiwon, who had already threatened to kill him, will not listen to Alexander.

『Alexander. You are the executor and defender of justice together with me My only human friend in Middle Earth. I am a dragon.』

Although they had been together for a long time in Middle Earth, there was still something Alexander did not know about the nature of dragons.

Gold Dragons are a race for good.

They are the leader of Metal Dragons who protects justice.

『As a dragon, I have no intention of leaving any power that is a threat to me. I don’t need that kind of power. Hot Cheeks, that creature that entangles mana cannot be tamed or summoned. How did Lee Jiwon summon it, how does Soul Link work…? Lee Jiwon stimulates my intellectual curiosity enough, but it’s too dangerous to handle.』

“Is that what you think?”

『It wouldn’t be a big deal for you as a human being. A mouse is nothing to humans, but bear in mind that sometimes a mouse can kill an elephant.』

“That makes sense.”

Today was the first time he had actually seen a monster called Hot Chicks, but Alexander had the confidence and practical ability to kill the frog without the help of Bailephus. Still, he did not complain. If that is the case with Bailephus, then it is.

『I will kill Lee Jiwon.』

As Bailephus finished speaking, the body of the gold dragon flying in the night sky briefly glowed. Alexander’s presence was so clear that Minis users who looked up at the sky thought it was a shooting star.

“I see, Bailephus. I respect your will.”

Alexander grabbed the spear. It would not be an exaggeration to say that he relied solely on the power of Bailephus in the battle today. It was a battlefield where he didn’t even need to go out.

However, if Bailephus really wanted to get rid of the forces that threatened him, Alexander would not stand still.

“I will also add strength to your breath.”


Alexander and Bailephus were a good match. The gold dragon lightly exhaled his nose as he heard Alexander’s answer.

After a while, he flew through the night wind again, and Bailephus opened his mouth.

『I feel the energy of humans 10 minutes away. They’re really retreating. Can humans really see through each other’s heads?』

“Humans will think so even when they trip over a stone.” 『It’s an interesting race.』

Alexander listened to Bailephus’ words and whispered to Chiyou. And before Chiyou’s answer came back, he first grabbed the line that went to Bailephus.

“Then, let’s go.”

『It’s going to be a fun night.』

The gold dragon’s body tightened even more. The air resistance decreased and their speed increased. At last, a huge arrow that cut through the sky reached the Fibiel army’s rear that was retreating toward Marching Plains.

“Can you feel Lee Jiwon’s location?” 『Usually, finding mana is quick. However, if he felt threatened, he would already be in hiding. It’s not easy to find.』

“Then there must be only one way.”

『Right. If it’s not easy to find-』

Alexander and Bailephus agreed. Maybe they are better suited because they have the same mindset.

『-Let him come out on his own.』

The gold dragon opened its mouth. Huuup, air was sucked in in an instant. Alexander quietly covered his ears.

『Rooooooooooooooooaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaaar—-!』

The Gold Dragon roared. The Dragon Roar cast ‘fear’ abnormal status effect on those who heard it. However, the attack did not end there.

Rather, it was just beginning.

“Oh, Keok-!”

“W-what? What’s happening?”

“Alexander! It’s Alexander-”


The Fibiel users, who had their bodies suddenly hardened, noticed a sudden light source coming from behind them. The light from behind made their shadows longer.

A blazing superhot, white flames erupted from Bailephus’ mouth.

The Dragon’s Breath did not stop even as it burned all Fibiel users.

A white line was drawn here and there on the black drawing paper. The only thing the white line left on the black paper was the gray dots.

-Ha Leeha, Ha Leeha! Can you hear? Alexander is here!

-Yes…… I’m watching.

Leeha was not flustered at the sudden vibration. What really surprised him was Ram Hwayeon, who whispered to him.

-Y-you are watching? Where?! Aren’t you supposed to be there?

-Nope. No way. I am quite far from there.

Still, Leeha could see. No, was there anyone who couldn’t see the light among Fibiel users?

‘Crazy……. What is that? It’s not even Yeouldo Firewords Festival!’

A pillar of flame suddenly soared into the night sky and hit the ground. From afar were murmurs mixed with confusion, screams, and shouts. Even those who saw Alexander for the first time could understand the situation immediately.

“Hyung! Hyung!”

“Oh, Kijung-ah.”

“What are you going to do now?”

Hearing Kijung’s question, Leeha measured his distance from Alexander. The speed in which he was running rampant wasn’t a joke, and the difficulty of measuring the distance to the target in the middle of the night, which did not really help, was extremely difficult.

“I have to go to a high ground first. Biyemi-nim! Is there any place nearby on the map?”

“Kiskis, I already prepared it.”

“A place where you can secure your view! Kijung-ah, call Kidd!”

“Okay, hyung!”

“Tale and Biyemi, prepare to communicate with others, and I will contact Ram Hwayeon as soon as a place is available.”

Leeha took out a magazine of Black Bass and ran while checking the cartridges.

“Operation Name: Dragonslayer, begin!”

“Ha Leeha-nim, the hill at 1 o’clock! From there, there are no obstacles!”

“Okay! Let’s go!”

As soon as he heard Biyemi’s cry, Leeha ran.

The Fibiel army in the center had no intention of fighting Alexander.

The hooo, hooo sound dug into the users’ ears who were busy running away, and all Byulcho members started running back. Since Minis was mostly flat, the view was unobstructed even when climbing a small hill. It was just about the same height as the gold dragon. It was a low hill, less than 100m high.

“Huuu, good.”

After looking around for a moment, Leeha opened the Black Bass’ bipod and laid down.

It was an operation that did not require much explanation. Everyone who had experienced it already knew that the most important thing to catch Alexander was ‘mobility’.

No matter how much fly magic is used, it is not enough to chase a dragon that is flying rampant in the air.

In other words, the gist of the operation was simple.

If they can’t follow the movement of Alexander and Bailephus, they can force them to move. Make sure that they had no choice but to move. That was the way!

‘When commander-in-chief Granville appears, he will surely go there. But that’s too dangerous.’

Most importantly, Leeha did not know all the powers and skills of Alexander and Bailephus. What if an unexpected situation happened when they thought that they have already secured a sufficient distance? And what if commander-in-chief Granville died?

‘We can’t have that.’

Leeha did not want to make such a risk. So, what was the other way to attract Alexander and Bailephus without showing Granville?

“Huuu…”

Leeha exhaled and opened the scope cap. Fortunately, there was no need to wear night vision. The fire-breathing dragon’s location could be seen from afar.

‘It’s really fast.’

He could see the flames moving over the scope. How many Fibiel users died each time it was sprayed? Even looking at the situation of his allies, he could not hurry.

Contrary to his impatient mind, the movements of his fingers were extremely slow and precise.

Click一 Click- click-.

“Hyung…… are you okay?”

“It’s not going to be easy Especially that gold dragon……”

Next to Leeha, Kijung and Kidd looked anxious. Leeha ignored what they said and adjusted the click.

“Kidd, how much is about here?”

“How much? Are you talking about the distance?”

“Yes. The distance from Alexander.”

Leeha took his eyes off the scope, measured the distance to Alexander in his mind, looked into the scope again, and fine-tuned the distance. Kidd lifted the brim of his hand slightly and watched the gold dragon spit fire.

“Probably two kilometers…?”

“Oh, you’re talent for sniping is better than I thought.”

“Cough, if it’s related to guns, of course-”

“But it is a little less than that. At night it looks a little farther away. Probably around 1.8km.”

Kidd shrugged and coughed and pushed the brim of his hat again. In addition to Leeha and Kidd, there were a lot of people from Byulcho Special force, including Kijung. Their conversation was heard by everyone.

“W-what would a person who knows so well ask for.”

“Kek, it’s entertaining. I don’t know why it’s good to tease Kidd like this.”

As Kidd started to laugh as he listened to Leeha’s prank, the tension around them calmed down a bit. The gap that’s slightly brighter, clap your applause! Hit.

“Let’s take it easy. Even if we all die, the war won’t end. Of course, don’t die.”

Yes!

Guild master Kijung and vice-guild master Tale smiled happily as they looked at the guild members who responded loudly. Even though he is a lone sniper, he never gave up on team play.

However, the two of them did not bother him.

Because they knew how much concentration he need to focus now. It was also something to avoid making him feel good with compliments.

‘It’s different from when I hit the crab shells. It’s also different from Dike Beach.’

In the case of the King Crab, the distance was shorter than 1.5km.

Since it was a distance of about 1 nautical mile, it would be about 100m further, but they were constantly moving at that time. Most importantly, the movement of the target was predictable. Because it was impossible to suddenly change the direction of the ship.

‘But now, it’s different. It’s too fast and I couldn’t control their movements.’

In his mind, Leeha wanted to hit Alexander’s head. However, even under the same situation looking at the distance of 1.8km with a 30x scope, that was seen from 60m, Leeha could not accurately identify Alexander’s location.

To hit the person sitting on the fast-moving gold dragon’s neck right now was close to impossible with simple attack.

‘I won’t be able to kill Alexander anyway. To bring Alexander and the dragonfly away. Then-’

There’s no need to choose the difficult route.

(To be continued…)
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Click-.

Leeha made a final click adjustment.

Black Bass was adjusted for only 26mm. However, Leeha was well aware of how much the angle will change at a distance of 1,800m ahead.

Since there was nothing to see, the wind was difficult to measure. However, the bullet will listen to Leeha’s wishes.

“Haaa……”

Leeha exhaled a long breath.

Toward the still-dark plain of Minis, a huge monster, the strongest race in existence that interacted with humans, ravaged Fibiel’s army.

‘Calm Mind.’

3 seconds, his body became firm. The flame of the gold dragon was cut off. It was probably about to move. Good. Leeha was aware of its pattern from before.

2 seconds, he was not in a hurry. He did not have to predict Now he just had to wait. Leeha did not exhale again.

1 second, rOOOOOOOAAAAAAR- it was as if he could hear the roar of the gold dragon. And the point where the flame was ignited, the space where the breath started, caught Leeha’s eyes. The distance did not change.

Only the direction has changed slightly.

He moved his rifle slightly. And click.

0 second. Baaaaaaang一一…….

After only 3 seconds of maintaining the skill duration of calm mind, Leeha’s bullet was already traveling through the air.

『ROOOOOAAAAR——!』

It was ultra-high flame breath once more. Breath was also different from magics that use mana. Whether it was breath or magic, the Gold Dragon had no limit. Users cried out that it was a cheat, but Middle Earth’s operators did not listen to the complaints.

“Live-”

“Kuwaaaaak!”


“Anti-magic Shell, anti-magic-”

Hwarororok!

Those who used magic to defend themselves remained only as corpses. Some of those who had weak magical defense or did not even try defending themselves disappeared without leaving a corpse.

Alexander just stared at Bailephus’ power with a blank expression.

No resistance, no counterattack. The massacre of Fibiel’s low-level users was not even exciting.

“Are you still not coming out, Lee Jiwon…?. After all the soldiers are killed, you will no longer be able to hide and target me.”

Bailephus’ breath was over. As he breathed, the gold dragon flew right to the side.

Flap- flap-!

Whenever they heard the sound of his wings flapping, Fibiel users felt like they were having a nightmare.

『Can’t you see Lee Jiwon yet, Alexander?』

“Not yet. What hasn’t appeared yet- eughk?!”

Pooof一.

Alexander’s body staggered as he looked down at the ground with a groan. To be exact, he didn’t stagger. Bailephus’ body which he was riding shook!

“Bailephus, what-”

Alexander could not connect his words properly.

『ROOOOOAAAAAAR一一!』

The gold dragon roared. It wasn’t the roar of a mighty dragon. It wasn’t a roar that evoked ‘fear’, it was the cry of a creature purely out of pain.

Alexander was perplexed.

“Bailephus! What’s going on?”

『Kaaaaaaa一! Luger?! Luger is here, Alexander!』


“Luger?”

Alexander immediately lowered his head when he heard Bailephus screaming madly.

Then, he found that where he was sitting, just below the starting point of the gold dragon’s neck bone, which Hot Chicks had pierced with his teeth just before, the dragon’s chest had been torn off.

And red blood flowed.

It pierced through the magic shield that was always cast around the dragon, even the dragon scales that were stronger than the magic shield, and caused damage!

Alexander thought it would be natural for Bailephus to react that way. At least until today, there was only one person who had hurt the gold dragon.

『Lee Jiwon and Luger! I will never forgive you!』

Bailephus’ voice trembled. Not out of fear, but out of anger. It was a voice that Alexander had not heard in a long time.

The gold dragon stopped breathing and sped up again.

If it was a human, it would be impossible to grasp the exact situation because of pain, but dragons were different.

It was a simple matter to figure out where the attack came from.

Kwaeeeeek.

The gigantic dragon split the wind.

“Is that…… planned?”

“I-it screamed. The gold dragon is crying.”

The Byulcho guild members took a step back without knowing it. They had no idea that a scream from far away in the night sky could sound so terrifying.

“H hyung?”

“Oh……. I thought he wouldn’t be in pain because it was huge. I just shot him for the aggro, it must have hurt a lot didn’t it?”

“I-I don’t think now is the time to say things like that. It’s a lot worse than the day before.”

Hot Cheeks wasn’t meant to hurt the gold dragon.


It was just for biting into the dragon’s scale and sealing the dragon’s magic.

Even the teeth, which attacked the similar spot, could not penetrate its flesh.

Rather, it was close to ‘attaching’ Hot Chicks to the gold dragon’s body, so there was no pain.

However, the ‘damage’ included in this attack was different. Leeha had underestimated his own power too much. He didn’t know he could make even a gold dragon scream.

“The breath is coming!”

Gulp.

Someone gulped. If they succeeded in one shot like this, what do they need to do now? Even Leeha was a little flustered for a while.

Huuuuung!

Suddenly, the wind blew up the hill. Leeha’s bangs flew up. He could feel in the wind itslef. How the dragon would move.

“I-It’s going this way now!”

“Uwaaaaa!”

It was only natural for the Byulcho Special force to make an uproar.

“I heard Ram Hwayeon scream too! She’s currently in contact with Pei Wu, Lee Jiwon, and Ron! He will be here in 3 minutes!”

“3minutes?”

Not 30 seconds? However, it was only natural for them that they did not know where Alexander would appear or where Leeha would shoot.

Leeha shouted while looking at the surrounding users.

“Kijung-ah! And all Byulcho Special force, get down! Quickly! Kidd, you too!”

“What? W-what about hyung?”

“I will manage! If I go, the dragon will surely chase after me, and I can hide if I’m alone!”

“You mean you’re going to hide against the gold dragon? He would be able to find even a single strand of your hair.”

“You’re noisy! Kidd, you go down too, quick!! And as soon as you meet Lee Jiwon or Pei Wu, make sure you get the timing right! I will make another shot.”

“What do you mean, eong-ah?”

Leeha spat out the plan mindlessly. The dragon’s movement was much faster than expected, and the crisis they face was much more serious.

While performing the strategy, it was not uncommon for things to change! Leeha immediately came up with a new plan.

“Get down, Kijung. That’s how you can protect me.”

“Eeek-”

Kijung bit his lip, but he couldn’t disagree. Leeha’s statement was correct. Taking Leeha with them would endanger everyone.

Kijung didn’t care about himself, but he wanted to avoid interfering with Leeha’s plan as much as he could.

“Okay, hyung. I will back down.”

“Right, 3 minutes, do you understand? I can hold on that much.”

“Byulcho Special force! Get down the hill! Keep in touch with Ram Hwayeon and set up a meeting point, quick!”

Kijung led Byulcho down. Kidd, who looked at Leeha for a moment, quickly turned around.

“Huuuu, huuuu.”

Leeha took a deep breath and looked around.

It was literally a hill. With a few trees missing. He had to endure 3 minutes against the gold dragon. Huuuung, the roar of the gold dragon mixed with the sound of the wind was heard. 『Where is Luger-!』

Flap- flap- flap-.

Every time Bailephus flapped his winds, the weeds of the hill fluttered. Now that there was no problem in mana management, he could fly without flapping his wings, but this time, it was not for flying.

It was to shake the vegetation to seek out anything that is hidden. The gold dragon’s eyes were bitter.

“Can’t you feel it, Bailephus?”

『There’s no mana signature. However, there’s no trace that the attacker’s mana moved.』

“There’s no place to hide here.”

Alexander received Bailephus’ words dryly. They could not feel any mana signature, and there were no movements of mana. However, they were not able to see Luger.

Even at this point where there was nowhere to hide. Alexander wanted to speak, but he was speechless. It had been a long time since he had seen his partner so irritated. And he remembered very well what the gold dragon did when he was attacked by Luger and got irritated.

‘All the monsters in the mountain died.’ Not a peak, but a ‘mountain’…… He breathed out at random and burned everything to death. Even Alexander was so angry that he could not swallow.

‘Hut. Thanks to Luger, I raised one level. Should I thank him?’

The blonde user was covered in blood but escaped without dying in the end.

A cheeky, cynical attitude and overwhelming attack power befitting the Gestapo-like image. The only person who made the gold dragon Bailephus angry and made the no. 1, Alexander, nervous.

『Where are you, lUUUUGEEEEER-!』

Heeeeeuuup, Bailephus took a breath. Then spewed it towards the slope of the hill. The gold dragon’s super-heated flame breath sprayed around the hill. The flamethrower created by an extraterrestrial being was different from human flame magic.

“Kuuuuuk-!”

“R-run away! Run-”

“Turn it off! The fire!”

“T-this, the water drop doesn’t stop the fire?!”

“Take off your clothes, you idiot, just take them off!”

Just the sparks sticking to their clothes made ordinary users’ vision sharply darken. As the surrounding low-level users left in a hurry, the area around the hill became empty.

『You can’t run away, Luger! Did you try again without knowing my mercy last time? This time, I will completely melt your arrogant face!』

The hill, which was less than 100m above sea level, became a stage. On the stage engulfed in flames, the only things visible on the stage were the gold dragon and Alexander riding it. Ordinary users who could not understand the intention of the glowing Bailephus only had a question mark floating above their heads. In the meantime, there was another crowd in a commotion.

“Leeha-hyuuuuung-!”

“D-don’t go, Kay!”

There was a commotion among Byulcho, which had been waiting for the other elites to meet at the bottom of the hill.

“L-let go of me, this-hyungnim! Leeha hyung, Leeha hyung is alone over there-”

Kijung tried to get away from Tale, but Tale was not the only one who stopped Kijung. Byulcho’s guild members weren’t the type to watch their guild master go and die.

“Kiskis, I don’t know if I should like our guild master-nim’s personality being like that. Look at the party window. Leeha-nim’s health is still the same.”

Biyemi laughed next to them.

“Yes?”

“He’s not dead yet. Hearing what the gold dragon said, it looks like he is hidden……. Is there a way that Leeha could stay hidden without getting detected by the dragon’s mana detection?”

Biyemi did an accurate analysis and glanced at Kidd. He couldn’t ask openly, but he might have known something, Kidd felt his eyes and then gently pressed the brim of his hat to cover his face.

“I don’t know exactly. But…”

Perhaps it had something to do with 『Black Bass』.

If one is part of the ‘Three Musketeers’, one could learn some unique skills that fit their characteristics. It was a fact that even 『Rapid Fire』 Kidd could guess and that there was something that only 『Bullseye』 Leeha could use.

“But?”

“You should already know. It is his specialty.”

“A secret weapon that can improve the situation?”

However, Kidd remained silent. Biyemi smiled and asked again.

“……It’s about finding a good skill and using it.”

Kidd nodded as a matter of factly. Hearing his words, Biyemi finally burst out laughing.

“Kiskis, the musketeers don’t even know.”

The perimeter of the hill was still burning. In the situation where Alexander and Bailephus were roaring around, they all had different ways of enduring the inevitable ‘three minutes’.

While Fibiel’s elites secretly gathered, the person they were talking about was watching the situation.

(To be continued…)
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Poor Luger, 
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 ‘Haaa, haa, this is so crazy, did he just say that?’

And there were those who waited anxiously for the unavoidable three minutes. It didn’t feel like his heart would fall, but it would disappear altogether instead.

The gold dragon screamed while flapping its wings larger than Leeha’s body and had a sense of intimidation that surpassed reality.

Every time Bailephus said a word, and every time Alexander looked at the ground, Leeha was so afraid that they might hear his heartbeat.

‘I-If it wasn’t for camouflage-’ He would have died a lot earlier. No detection, no search using Mana! Besides, even the Gold Dragon can’t easily recognize the sniper’s camouflage!

Although he could not guess anything about Bailephus, it was godsent that he stayed here and used the camouflage skill.

‘As soon as they arrived, they followed the flow of mana. That’s probably the way dragons usually do.’

What if he moved after Byulcho?

The gold dragon would immediately chase in that direction and spit out a breath. The damage would have been beyond imagination.

‘I only have to hold on for three minutes like this……. No, he had seen Alexander go crazy, so they would have to get together faster than that. Everyone, hurry up, daaamn it! A person like Captain Kijung said that he poured water on cup noodles and finish it within a minute!’

The word 3 minutes suddenly reminded Leeha his military days.

The time he had to wait until the cup noodles was cooked. Three minutes might seem short at first glance, but there were times when it felt like the world stood still. Much less when it’s a life-threatening situation like now.

But he had to be patient. He had to endure. The moment he moved his body without being able to withstand this pressure, is the moment his camouflage would be released.

‘In this critical situation, Luger- no, wait. Come to think of it, what is Luger doing?’

The one that Bailephus is searching for was Luger.

A question about him suddenly popped up in Ha’s mind, who became injustice at the thought that he might receive that anger instead.

‘……He had not shown up anywhere in this war. From the time we roamed the battlefield, he was in a place called Land of the Dead.’

A wasteland in a neutral zone. What did Luger do there?

In order to divert his mind to another place, Leeha opened the Three Musketeers’ window. Kidd was only a short distance away. But what about Luger?

‘The Land of the Dead- the 33rd floor- the mouth of the abyss……? What- uh, it changed!’


The moment Leeha looked at his location through the Three Musketeers’ window, Luger’s location changed in an instant. The change in location was quite absurd.

‘The Ezwen Papacy? No Fibiel but Ezwen?’

What the hell was Luger doing?

He couldn’t even get reached by whisper, but he must also be watching the Three Musketeers’ window. Knowing that Leeha and Kidd were together, and knowing that Alexander had reached the max-level and appeared on the battlefield, it would be no wonder if he appeared in the war.

‘The Kraven truce notification should have popped up. He may not know that we are fighting right now, but it is worth thinking about the possibility that I and Kidd are near Alexander. Most importantly, the location was no less than the center of Minis!’

Luger was not stupid. With just a few hints, he guessed about 『Arcane Sniper』, and after getting that nickname, he had enough brains to track his location.

There was no way that kind of person could not picture the current situation.

So, why didn’t Luger come? Currently, both Leeha and Kidd have chain teleport enabled. Is it possible that he didn’t see it? Did he not turn on The Three Musketeers’ window?

‘There’s no way. Before the war, I used to turn it on from time to time. Figuring out what Kidd and Luger were and what they were doing helped my quest route. He’s not going to ignore us. He is sure to check our location at regular intervals.’

There was something. Leeha instinctively knew. If Luger was an ordinary user, he wouldn’t have thought it strange that he didn’t come. However, who was Luger? What was his nickname?

‘War Mercenary.’

He is a person who likes to fight so much that he wouldn’t even blink if he was called a ‘War Maniac’. Whenever there was war, he puts his feet up and points his gun at it. He was someone who had gotten the ‘Dragon Fighter’ modifier after fighting Alexander.’

.

He did not participate throughout thewar, despite having all the requisites he liked here. For what reason?

‘It means that there is something more important than the war.’

It was Leeha’s reasonable answer. Judging from Luger’s activities so far, it will be related to the Land of the Dead and Ezwen kingdom, which he suddenly teleported to from the Land of the Dead.

What’s going on? Will Kidd be able to figure it out?

‘I don’t have the time to ask anyway.’

Leeha could tell because he kept the Three Musketeers’ window open. Kidd started moving. Leeha heard a whisper in his head. Fibiel’s most elite carefully surrounded the burning hill.

The first thing cast was Ram Hwayeon’s magic.


“Marble Flare!”

A beam of fire stretched out into the dark night sky with her cry. That was the signal.

“Bailephus.”

Red and yellow flames blended like marble. However, Alexander, let alone the gold dragon, ignored it. 『This is a trick not worth dispelling. Be careful.』

“Hmm.”

If he had lifted his head up to the sky following the flames, he would not have been able to dodge the arrows shot from below. Ram Hwayeon’s magic was not only used as a signal, but also to draw the two’s attention, but it was quickly recognized.

“Tsk, they noticed!”

“Focus attack! The target is Alexander! Pour it all out!”

“Icycle Cutter!”

“Aura bolt!”

“Edge Stone!”

Icicles, intangible mana energy, sharp rocks, and other types of attack magic were created and shot into the sky. As soon as they were shot by the mages surrounding the hill, another magician jumped out.

“Prepare to run, tsunami!”

Shwaaaaa一!

Alexander got surrounded by rough seas. The seawater spread in an instant and the breath that the gold dragon had sprayed collided with it, creating an explosion of water vapor.

Just looking at it, Bailephus snorted.

『Disple.』

Shoooto一.

All attack magic that was flying into the air was gone.

The seawater that had a hard time stopping the breath also disappeared. It was a skill that blows all the magic of the elites with just one word. There was nothing more foolish than using magic in front of a dragon.


There was no way that Fibiel’s elites would not have known about it. As the vapors dispersed like mist, real attacks flooded in.

“Fire Sword!”

“Enhance: Mana Amplification!”

“Anti-magic Shield! Let’s go, byeolcho!”

Although it was enhanced with mana, they were essentially physical hits! As the mana boost was applied to Tale’s flaming sword, the flame stretched like a rubber band.

The highlander charged with a fire sword extended to 3 meters with a reliable tanker to protect him.

“Warcry一!”

“Shield Boomerang!”

“Meteor Strike! Gold rush is the pride of our country!”

Along with Ron’s shout, a streamlined shield ripped through the air, followed by the elites of Rush and other North American guilds.

“Do we have to cover in this situation?”

“Kiskis, we have to.”

“What cover can a venom mage provide-”

“Am I just a Venom Mage? Slow Poison! Keheuuup- Thweee! Thwee! Thwe!”

Even Biyemi spat poison into a small shuriken and prepared to throw it, and Kidd with a revolver.

Fibiel’s elites surrounding the hill started the Gold Dragon raid.

『Lowly ones, bring Lee Jiwon and Luger right now, I don’t care about you!』

Bailephus roared. It was definitely different from the day. Even the rushing elites from Fibiel noticed it. However, they did not stop.

“We have business with you, Gold Dragon.”

“Kiskis, do it in moderation and go back!”

Kwaeeeeek-!

Biyemi threw shurikens. It was an action that a magician is not able to do when the combat assistance system is turned on. It was only possible for the strongest assassin, but it could not be helped as he lacked stats.

『It’s not funny.』

After he flapped his winds, the shuriken fell in one hit.

It appeared to be an ineffective attack, but it was enough. It was only to cover the elites rushing towards Alexander and Bailephus anyway. And because he was a cover for the real cover shot.

“Bullet Storm.”

As Kidd’s coat flapped, the special rapid-fire skill that had once annihilated Czar’s guild members was activated. With the energy of mana, Kidd pulled the trigger without rest, holding the revolvers floating in the air alternatively.

It wasn’t just speed.

Quickdraw and fanning were performed by Kidd, but the Bullet Storm contained mana in it, and the damage was also quite different from before!

Bang bababang, babang, bababang一! The mana shield that wrapped around Bailephus flashed with a bursting sound.

“The shield cracked!”

“Okay, Tale-hyungnim!”

“I will help! Strength!”

“High Jump!”

Byulcho’s buff wrapped around Tale’s body. Tale gave strength to his thighs in line with the energy surrounding his body.

“Haaaaaap!”

The Highlander, a melee dealer that focused on agility, leaped with his thighs swollen and his body was able to reach the dragon floating in the air. The sword of fire, which had grown to nearly 3m in length, also contributed in it.

And just because it’s focused on agility doesn’t mean its attack is weak.

“Head!”

Baaaaaang——!

Tale’s blow hit the spot where Kidd’s bullet had hit.

A golden shield was created once more with a bang sound. Alexander looked at Tale, who had attacked from the same level as himself.

“Can I step forward, Bailephus?”

『I’ll leave it to you. I have something to find out from Luger’s friend.』

The two beings had received the attack of Fibiel’s elites, but Bailephus only focused on one mana signature. Bailephus only focused on Kidd, ignoring the attacks that did not even tickle him. Anyone who made a soul pact with Luger would know Luger’s location and he wanted to end that arrogant human through Kidd.

“It was a very interesting attack, nameless warrior.”

While Bailephus flapped his wings and slowly approached Kidd, Alexander, who was sitting on top of him, raised his spear.

“Can you stop this? Thrust.”

Shwoook, his spear stretched in an instant. Tale was surprised by the already 6m spear being shot.

“Heup!”

He immediately struck the spear with a slash, but without much acceleration, a tremendous weight was transmitted from Alexander’s spear to his sword.

“Sure enough!”

The floating spear in the air shortened. Alexander re-cast his skill and aimed at Tale again, and the spear stretched again in an instant and pierced the air.

Kwaang-!

This time, Tale slammed the spear to the side and changed its trajectory, but Tale’s wrists tingled. He couldn’t believe that Alexander was so powerful while casting skills while sitting on top of the gold dragon

“What nonsense-”

“Stick.”

The eyes of those who had caught a bug would have had more humanity than his. When Alexander cast his skill again, the length of the spear changed again.

Watching the tip of the spear rapidly stabbing his chest, Tale couldn’t help but swallow dryly this time.

“Tale-hyungniiiiiim!”

Kijung jumped in hastily, but it was already too late!

The increasing speed of the spear exceeded the tank user’s movement. Fortunately, it was slower than the dealer’s movement. It was possible because it was the movement of one of the world’s best martial artists.

“Flying Dragon, ascension!”

Baaaaang!

Rubber-like shoes hit the spear. The energy on Pei Wu’s toes and the energy surrounding Alexander’s spear collided, enough to cause sparks in the air.

While Alexander sat on top of him, the gold dragon had narrowed the distance enough to have a conversation with Kidd.

Without even paying attention to the users, Bailephus opened his mouth.

『You who had made a soul pact with Luger. I will ask you. Where is Luger?』

“……Are you curious about Luger’s location, gold drag-”

『Curse.』

Keuuuk-!”

“K-Kidd-nim!”

It was as if an invisible giant’s hand was pressing against Kidd’s body. Kidd’s face twisted as he put his arms close to his body. Biyemi, who was next to him, could only feel sorry for him, but couldn’t take any action. Because his magic could not reach the gold dragon. 『Answer only. I won’t ask again. Where is Luger?』

“Luuu- ger is in Ezwen- keeeuk.”

Kidd managed to open the Three Musketeers’ window and open his mouth. At least he didn’t lie. Luger’s current location is Ezwen, the Holy Land.

It’s also inside the palace.

Of course, Bailephus did not just nod his head upon hearing that.

『……Don’t play with words. Tell me Luger’s current location.』

“Kuuuuuuwaaa-!”

Kidd screamed.

Because the assimilation rate was set to high, his pain became more real. His vision is almost half blurred in an instant. Even though it was hard to breathe because he couldn’t even cough, Kidd smiled.

“You- you don’t know.”

『I am a gold dragon. What don’t I know?』

“You- the one who attacked you- heeeuuk-!”

Kidd’s face went red and looked like it was about to explode.

The pressure got stronger, and Kidd’s vision darkened in proportion. The gold dragon had no intention of saving a human who was playing with words with him.

However, there was nothing wrong with Kidd’s words.

Bailephus did not know!

It was a smart decision for Leeha to aim for Bailephus in his first attack. If Alexander was hit, he would have known right away about the user’s privilege.

What is the nickname of the one who attacked him is.

However, Bailephus was different.

He existed within Middle Earth, and besides, he was not Alexander’s subordinate and was an intelligent creature. The message that he was attacked by Ha Leeha did not appear for Bailephus.

And Leeha did not only see the situation between Alexander and the users but also heard the whole conversation between Bailephus and Kidd. Kidd’s pained scream still rang in Leeha’s head.

“You didn’t like what I told you, so I thought you didn’t know, won’t you know what you did wrong when you get beaten?”

『What-』

The gold dragon’s neck went stiff.

Suddenly, a voice rang from just below his stomach. A human figure that he had never seen before was revealed.

A human figure with a black gun.

Baaaaaang—-!

Leeha pulled the trigger without hesitation.

(To be continued…)
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『——-!』

“Uuuk, Bailephus?”

Alexander, who was about to swing his spear towards Pei Wu, pulled back the spear and managed to take the reins. This time, he didn’t stagger. Bailephus jolted. The gold dragon flapped its wings and raised its height again.

“Kuook…”

“Kidd-nim!”

Biyemi quickly supported Kidd, who was released from the pressure and fell back.

The moment when the red blood of the gold dragon spurted out of the body, Fibiel’s elites did not miss that moment.

Especially from Lee Jiwon’s perspective, who only targeted Alexander.

“Kyahahahaha! I’m here, I’m back! As Ha Leeha-hyungnim expected, I have come!”

“Lee Jiwon!”

With a smile on his face, Lee Jiwon called Leeha ‘hyungnim’ and ran out.

With a black sword in one hand and a black mana in the other, he had long since finished preparing for battle. For the first time, a light of flustered ness flashed across Alexander’s face.

“He is not alone, Alexander! Eight Kicks!”

“Heeeuup?!!”

Pei Wu only targeted Alexander’s spear.

He had to turn towards Lee Jiwon, but the martial artist was persistently following and kicking his spear. Pei Wu’s movement, which speeds up when the spear shrinks and follows when the spear lengthens, he is Fibiel’s best martial artist.

“Giga Spark!”

Black lightning shot out from Lee Jiwon’s hand.

The electric current that spread out as if around the cracked shield made a sound. The shield was definitely shrinking. The spherical 360-degree shield had a lot of space left even after covering everything even Alexander now has the upper part of his head exposed. 『Ugh, Lee Jiwon! With only this level of magic-』


A fire appeared in Bailephus’ struggling eyes, but he could help it either. Because there were still people who were laying down under the Gold Dragon’s stomach. Leeha quickly pulled the bolt and fired additional shots.

“As expected, a dragon is a dragon, let’s see how long it can hold up!”

Baaaaaaaang一!

Another bullet pierced the Gold Dragon’s stomach. The moment the bullets collided with the scales, a small spark was generated.

『Kaaaaaaa—! What is this guy!』

It wasn’t a weak spot but Leeha’s attack power was so high.

Bailephus did not fall even after getting hit with one shot from a distance and two shots from close range. The gold dragon found Leeha. Looking at the head, which was bigger than Leeha’s body, he couldn’t help but be nervous.

『Are you another person who made a pact with Luger? I will never leave you alive-』

“You stupid dragonfly, you don’t see me, do you? Become a nugget! Sol Blaze!”

One of the strongest attack magic that Lee Jiwon could use. As soon as the skill linked to his weapon was cast, tension swept over the hill.

“Bailephus!”

Alexander tried to hastily turn his spear, but it was too much.

Because of Pei Wu’s tenacious defense, he couldn’t handle the spear properly! Even while Sol Blaze was being cast, Tale and the elites were striking Bailephus’ shield endlessly.

『Did you expect mercy more than this, mortals! Did you just target me with such a clumsy strategy!』

Swiish-.

The shield that covered Bailephus disappeared. However, the gold dragon was not flustered. Rather, it was Lee Jiwon who was surprised.

Bailephus removed the shield on his own and carried out a six-shot charge.

Even Alexander, who was sitting on top, was bewildered, and it was natural that he wouldn’t be fast enough to stop the Sol Blaze, which Lee Jiwon was still casting, and was only able to hold the reins.

“What a crazy dragonfly bird!-”

Pook-!


The hitting sound was very slow. There was no loud noise when the huge gold dragon and Lee Jiwon, a mere human, collided.

However, the destructive power would never be small. Lee Jiwon, who was blown away in an instant and got half buried in the ground, was gurgling and vomiting blood.

“It’s the same with you, martial artist. 

‘Brandish’.”

“You- protect yourself!”

Shwiiick-!

Alexander used his skill while swinging his spear when he gained half of his distance from Pei Wu. A distance that not even Pei Wu could narrow down immediately. That is to say, it was Alexander’s zone.

“Pei Wu-nim! No! Guardian’s Protection”

“G-guild master-nim!”

When the spear was swung towards Pei Wu, Kijung used his skill. There was no human that could be faster than the spear that was extending toward Pei Wu.

If so, that was the only way to protect him. The tanker had only one answer. Taking damage instead.

Someone from Byulcho was flustered, but it was after using the skill.

“Kijung!! Damn it!.”

With a click, Leeha pulled the bolt once more, and it was Alexander who he aimed at. The moment the trigger was pulled, the gold dragon’s mouth muffled.

『Physical Shot.』

Baaaaang—–…….

The space between Leeha and Alexander seemed to shake like a wave, and the bullet evaporated in the air and disappeared. If it was to block only certain spaces, not occasional shields, the Gold Dragon’s magic could not be penetrated so easily.

“No-”

Leeha tried to pull the bolt again, but Alexander’s swing was already in Pei Wu’s body.

Toooook!


Pei Wu’s body flew away with a blunt sound similar to hitting a doll. However, what was more serious than Pei Wu flying was the one who used the Guardian’s Seal.

“Kuheok…”

Kijung dropped the shield he was holding and fell forward.

Pei Wu himself used a skill to strengthen his defense, and Kijung received numerous buffs, but the shock was enough to lose consciousness for a moment.

“Kijung-aaahh!”

“Extra Heal!”

“Great Heal!”

The healers used their skills as soon as Kijung fell down.

Leeha raised the muzzle and pulled the trigger. At the same time, Bailephus’s mouth murmured. A shield was created at the same time Leeha shot. Baaaang!

Once again, only the gunshot spread. The corners of Bailephus’ mouth slowly rose.

『Luger had broken through this barrier, but you haven’t reached that point yet.』

“This crazy dragon bastard- if Kijung dies- you’re dead!”

Click!

Leeha pulled the bolt again and glanced at Kijung. Fortunately, he did not die instantly. If he had been stabbed rather than swung, he probably would not have survived. Bailephus landed.

Showing a dignified figure in front of Leeha who had already stood up, the giant dragon descended to the ground like a crane.

The blood flowing from his stomach was clearly visible in Leeha’s eyes. He was smiling, but he was not in a normal condition, but will the dragon die if he got hit anywhere? What if it didn’t die?

‘It means that I have to put it in his head after all.’

Leeha slowly raised the muzzle upward so that he won’t be seen. The human and dragon faced and search each other quickly.

『You can’t kill me. I am the executioner of justice, a gold dragon.』

Kuuung…… kuuuung….

『Your injustice is powerless in front of me.』

In line with Bailephus’ words, Leeha raised his rifle slowly. The opportunity is fleeting, it was neither fast nor slow.

Bailephus’ eyes were clear.

It was absurd to Leeha that the eyes of such overwhelming existence were clear. The moment he met the dragon’s eyes, he was not able to speak his mind, and Bailephus took off again

He was already preparing a breath long ago.

“B-Breath! It’s going to breathe!”

Someone shouted. Leeha realized that he missed the timing. The white light and the incandescent flame breath that had already sprung from Bailephus’ mouth will melt him.

“Don’t give up, Ha Leeha. You can hit it.”

“W-what?”

At that moment, Leeha heard a voice calling out from the side of the hill. It was the voice who carefully observed the situation from the time the gold dragon raid began in earnest.

“Four seconds, within that time, I should be able to shoot. Isn’t it?”

“Y-you-!?”

Leeha recognized him.

As the dragon’s breath grew stronger, the man walking out and talking to Leeha reached out.

It was a very slow pace but he was definitely move-casting. And the mana grains were light purple.

His face could not be seen properly, but there was only one person who used light purple magic that Leeha knew.

“Complete Halt!”

Sage Hyein shouted as he slammed his staff into the ground. The bodies of Bailephus and Alexander rattled and stopped as they flew in the sky.

『A complete stop! How can humans-』

“Damn it! I can’t even stop his mind, Leeha, shoot it fast!!!”

Hyein’s body trembled. Leeha stopped thinking. He had to put aside the questions of how, why, what, and so on.

At this moment, the only thing to focus on was the gold dragon, Bailephus.

Leeha immediately knelt down on one knee and raised his gun.

And his index finger moved. With that momentary movement to pull the trigger, a light burst out from the space between Leeha and Bailephus, tearing the gap.

“Ugh, uggghhk?!”

“W-w-what is this!”

The light was enough to blind. It was already night, so the light would be even brighter

“Shoot, Leeha hyung! Can’t you see hyung?! Shooooot!”

Kijung woke up and shouted. However, by the time light disappeared, the promised 4 seconds had already passed. Hyein staggered and backed away. His staff crumbled.

“Damn it! Who did that magic, at this moment!”

He bit his lips and felt sorry, but it was too late.

The gold dragon’s wings flapped once more. If he widened the distance and shoot the breadth, leeaha’s bullet will also melt.

However, Bailephus could no longer fly.

Because there was someone who was standing in the place where the light had disappeared, someone who was recognized by everyone here.

“L-L-Luger!”

He was finally here!

That hairstyle with pomade on it looked nice! Not only Leeha, but even Kidd laughed weakly.

It wasn’t over yet! All Three Musketeers have gathered!

When the thought of such a thing as a gold dragon ran through Leeha’s mind, lugar raised his cannon. The muzzle of the 『Cobalt Blue Pythong』, which was named after the color of the deepest lake water, was directed at Leeha.

“Remove your hand from the trigger.”

Luger spat out words as if he was sulking.

(To be continued…)
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“What? You belong to Fibiel-”

“Remove your finger off the trigger. I won’t repeat a third time.”

Leeha looked into Luger’s eyes. His blue eyes did not flinch. Is he supposed to release the trigger in this situation? It meant that he should not attack Alexander and Bailephus.

Telling a marksman to remove his trigger off the trigger is the same thing as telling a swordsman to put his sword into its sheath.

In other words, it was to stop fighting.

Luger, a citizen of Fibiel, was saying this to Leeha, another citizen of Fibiel.

‘This guy…….’

Is it a betrayal? Is it for self-interest? All sorts of thoughts were running through his mind.

Leeha’s index finger is still on the trigger. One bullet remained. No matter how crazy the situation was, it wasn’t enough to be unable to know the number of bullets in the magazine.

He could shoot.

‘However…’

Luger’s gun, of course, can it be called a gun?

His weapon was already in the cannon form. Even with the weapon change skill, he was aiming at Leeha. It was too naive to think that the shells were not loaded.

There was no way a marksman as good as Luger would not be able to detect Leeha’s movements. Even a slight twitch of his index finger would be detected.

Leeha thought about linking different skills, such as Soul Link and Force Barrier, but it was not enough. The distance is too close to do anything. Luger’s attack is too strong to be blocked with Force Barrier.

‘I can’t shoot, neither the dragon nor Luger. No, I can shoot either one of them but then…. Shit.’

It was worth a try, but it was a gamble with too much to lose with nothing to gain.

Silence suddenly filled the hill.

Not only the elites surrounding the hill, but none of the million users who watched the situation from afar could not understand the situation properly.


Fortunately, the person who had the most interaction with Luger barely stepped forward.

“What is this, Luger? I knew you were crazy about fighting-”

“Shut up, Kidd. Don’t come any closer.”

Luger’s words were firm. Kidd also flinched and stopped walking.

『Rapid fire』 Kidd doesn’t lose to anyone. If he moved at this moment, would he be able to hit Luger?

‘About 70m. It’s my distance. I can hit with 100% accuracy. There’s no need to move. No one can beat him at quick draw, but Kidd couldn’t move his hands.

It was because he was not quite sure if he could kill Luger ‘without any damage’.

The moment Kidd pulls out his revolver, Luger will pull the trigger of the anti-tank rifle.

It was because of where the muzzle was pointed at.

‘If that happens, Leeha will die.’

Luger, Kidd, and Leeha were all Three Musketeers, but the time they spent together as Three Musketeers was different. Luger, who became the first of the Three Musketeers, exuded an atmosphere that overwhelmed the other two.

Flap- flap- flap-.

Alexander and Bailephus in the air were also watching the strange situation happening on the ground. The gold dragon still had the breath in his mouth.

『Luger. What is this?』

Bailephus also tilted his head and said with a breath in his mouth.

He wanted to shoot the breath right away to melt Luger and the others who had injured his body, but the gold dragon didn’t.

It was the limit of a ‘good alignment’ and ‘NPC’.

Since he could not understand Luger, who had suddenly approached and helped him, intentions, the gold dragon could not act recklessly.

Luger shouted without looking up.

“Alexander, take your pet’s breath away now. If he opens that mouth even a little bit, this gun will be pointed toward you.”


Luger was obviously showing hostility to the other side as well.

Everyone in the range where Luger’s voice could be heard was startled. Even Leeha and Kidd were startled for a moment.

It wasn’t until Alexander barely coughed that the gold dragon Bailephus responded.

『What did you just say?』

“You have a slow deaf ear for a beast who pretends to be smart. Whether you swallow or destroy what’s in your mouth, it’s up to you, dragon. If you don’t want to die.”

『This guy dares-』

“If you think it’s a joke, spit it out. Do you think I would be afraid of a dragon, having gone to the mouth of the abyss?”

At Luger’s quiet words, Bailephus’ pupil dilated. The gold dragon, who had already opened its mouth, hurriedly raised its neck.

『Rooooooaaaaar—–!』

In the dark night sky, the gold dragon’s white flame breath spewed up in a straight line.

“R-really……. Is the gold dragon being deferential to Luger?”

“Shh, shhh! You can’t say something like that, guild master-nim!”

Kijung looked at Bailephus and was scolded by a guild member who stopped him. Even though there had been someone who had stolen Kijung’s will just before, Luger’s atmosphere was so great that even Kijung focused on him.

‘C-come to think of it, Hyein hyung- no, Hyein that person-’

At that moment, Kijung hurriedly turned his head, but Hyein had already disappeared Even in that chaotic atmosphere, sage Hyein had grown even more after the Sasuke incident with sufficient wit and ability to get his body out.. As Kijung and Tale made eye contact for a moment, thinking about it, the gold dragon opened his mouth again. 『Did you say the mouth of the abyss, Luger? Do you know what that means?』

“Of course. That’s why I am here, dragon Nugget.”

Luger looked down and quietly lowered his muzzle to the ground. Leeha and Kidd flinched. Should they fight back now? However, they thought too much and acted late.

Luger rummaged through his bag and held two papers in his hands.

“I have come as a messenger of Ezwen, the Holy City. The Fibiel and Minis should stop fighting immediately, and the commander-in-chief of each country should accept this letter.’’

He was not on Fibiel’s side. He wasn’t on Minis’ side either.


“W-what-”

“What?”

“The Holy City, ezwen? The country? Why were you there in this war?”

The surroundings buzzed in an instant. Before the voices got louder, Luger raised his voice again.

“Anyone who enters into battle as of this time will be excommunicated in the name of the Pope! Everyone put down your weapons!”

A voice filled with power spread through the hills. The news that was heard by the people in front was passed to the people in the back and was instantly spread throughout the entire Fibiel army.

“Oh my goodness…… get excommunicated?”

“Kiskis, this is a great deal.”

Byulcho members could not help but be surprised. Kijung, who received Pei Wu’s damage, had no strength to do anything anyway, but when Biyemi and the other members that they would get excommunicated, they all kept their weapons. Kidd didn’t even put his hand near the hem of his coat.

He couldn’t pull out his weapon in this situation. The members of Hwangryong including Pei Wu, members of Rush guild and Ron, and the Patriots guild…. One, two began to put away their weapon.

Only Luger stood proudly at the center.

The Holy City’s messenger was the only person with the authority to raise a weapon and shout. There was only one person in this area who was against that power.

“But I don’t have a religion?”

Leeha tilted his head and lifted the Black Bass. The rifle was aimed at Alexander.

“L-L-Leeha-hyuuung?!”

Kijung’s hoarse voice rang out.

“Ha Leeha- cough, what are you-”

Kidd was speechless. Luger rolled his eyes at Leeha.

“Are you going against the will of the Pope!”

“Without a religion, is he my Pope or your Pope?”

Leeha did not mean it as a joke.

Luger’s expression changed for the first time seeing Leeha’s serious attitude. What was with this guy? The expression on Leeha’s face made him feel bad for a moment, but Luger did not shoot his cannon at all.

“You really…… did you pass the 『Bullseye』 test with that head? Headmaster Browless is out of hand.”

“What? This bastard’s words-”

“Hyuung! It isn’t a religion! The users basically belong to the Pope’s office! By default, the Pope will attend the coronation of the kings of all countries, making it the state religion of that country! And – if you get excommunicated, you-”

“You will become the public enemy, Leeha-kun. At least in every castle or town where there is a temple or church, they will identify Leeha-kun as an enemy and try to kill him. Don’t you know how those potions are made? That is how strong the Pope is!”

Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi spoke disorderly.

That was why Ezwen, a small country with no other merits, could still survive in the continent, as Leeha once said.

Authority.

The absolute authority of the Holy City.

Of course, that authority is not used in ordinary situations. Unless it was a special situation such as a national war just like right now.

Hearing those words, Leeha did not easily lower his gun. Luger frowned and looked at Leeha.

“Remove your finger off the trigger.”

“Didn’t you say that you won’t repeat it for the third time, didn’t you just say it for the third time?”

Luger’s fingers twitched at Leeha’s provocation. Just before the pressure was applied to the trigger, Leeha spoke first.

He did not open his mouth because he was curious about the Holy City’s authority and its impact. Leeha raised a question about the balance breaker of this situation.

Leeha pointed to the existence that was currently a threat.

“Alexander! What is Alexander going to do! The gold dragon that Alexander is riding! That gold dragon is not human! Do you want to exercise the authority of a man to dismiss even the Gold Dragon? If you’re here to stop the battle, show your sincerity, Luger!”

Leeha’s voice came out explosively.

Leeha was flustered to see that everyone obediently listened to Luger’s words. Ezwen? The Pope? Excommunication? What about that? A gold dragon was in front of them!

No matter how Middle Earth was a game, the power of the Pope was limited to the human world! Lay down your weapon in front of an existence that could overwhelm humans. That was not an acceptable condition for Leeha.

Luger’s eyebrows wrinkled. Leeha’s statement made sense. The Pope cannot excommunicate dragons. The eyes of other users who only knew how to accept the settings but did not know how to apply them also enlarged.

“Bailephus.”

『What is in the letter, Luger?』

Alexander quietly called out Bailephus’ name, and Bailephus opened his mouth.

“It’s no use even if I say it. The moment the commander-in-chief of each country sees it, everyone will naturally know.”

『Does the Pope want peace in the human world?』

“Do you not know the urgency even with the name Mouth of the Abyss?”

Luger made an annoyed response, but Bailephus did not respond. The gold dragon thought for a moment before opening his mouth.

『Okay. I, Bailephus, the protector of order and executor of Justice, assure you that we will stop our attack on humans. Even if they had hurt me.』

Bailephus looked at Leeha.

Then he slowly bent his neck and looked at Lee Jiwon’s back, who moved secretly.

Leeha also vaguely heard it. The moment the gold dragon first appeared in Fibiel Camp, he said that he needed the united power of mankind.

In other words, the gold dragon will not break his promise. Yet his purpose was unknown.

Leeha lowered his weapon only after it reached that point.

Chiyou, who was grasping the situation through the crystal ball, bit her lips.

‘I asked where he was because he was not caught in the information network! What did you do, Luger?! The Pope’s messenger? You even have the right to excommunicate!’

Some people still haven’t been able to understand the situation properly, but Chiyou’s eyesight was three times faster than normal humans.

She could immediately understand what Luger’s appearance meant and the intention of appearing as Ezwen’s messenger and telling such a story.

Anyway, one thing was certain.

Luger was trying to break her meticulously crafted plan. It was what she found the most difficult.

“What is the letter about? It’s obvious what the Pope would say, but for what reason…”

Ewin stood by her side, focused on the content rather than the situation. For an NPC that exists only in Middle Earth, it was a natural reaction.

“Huhut, well. We’ll find out when he arrives. I……“

“Hmm? Where are you going?”

“I want to get some night air.”

Chiyou smiled brightly at Ewin and left the barracks. As she made a high, thin whistle, a black shadow suddenly appeared beside her.

“Did you call?”

“Call Petyr here.”

“What do you want to do?”

(To be continued…)
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 Not done

It was a person hiding in the shadow of the night wearing a black mask, with only his exposed eyes focused on her. It was Sasuke’s eyes that were immediately recognizable by Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi.

“That letter shouldn’t arrive here.”

“Are you ordering the destruction of the letter-”

“It is already too late to stop the letter going to Fibiel. And it should eliminate the one who brought them here. It has to be done together. Do you know what I mean?”

Chiyou quickly gave the order.

Sasuke only had his two eyes exposed, but those eyes showed how flustered he was. His eyes moved quickly from side to side.

“I can’t do it myself, but for the second order…”

“Why? Is it impossible?”

“Hat. No, Luger is currently in the middle of Fibiel’s camp. Again, I ask you to reconsider.”

To kill Luger. Even if the letter is destroyed, the war cannot be resumed if the Holy City’s messenger is present. However, who was Luger? Luger alone was difficult, but what about the people around him? It was natural for Sasuke to be flustered.

“So?”

Chiyou’s face, which had always been smiling brightly, began to harden. There’s no way she didn’t know that.

“Are you afraid of Byulcho? Even if you go with Petyr? I’m going to tell Alexander to pretend not to know, so as long as you’re careful with this-”

“I’m not afraid of Byulcho, nor am I afraid of Lee Jiwon.”

Sasuke closed his eyes tightly. It was shameful to have to say these words, and it was painful not to be able to follow Chiyou’s orders, but he opened his mouth with the thought that all of these were remarks for the woman he served.

“However… Ha Leeha is there.”

He was afraid that she would get angry. However, Chiyou did not say anything. Sasuke’s fear of Leeha was sincere.

He wasn’t afraid of his ability to shoot from a distance or his damage. If he was afraid of damage, he would have been more afraid of Lee Jiwon than Leeha.

It was more like an anxiety than fear.


The belief that he would interfere with his work again. Worrying that his movement would be detected.

He knew it because he had already been blocked several times. All the assassins and spies heading to Fibiel’s camp would be shot if they rush in without preparation.

“…Uhut, why is our Sasuke like that? How can you say something so weakhearted.”

“Without a thorough preparation…. For now…”

Sasuke opened his eyes at Chiyou’s soft voice and opened his mouth. What awaited him was a smile that was scarier than anger. Sasuke quickly closed his mouth and bowed again.

“Phew~ As expected, I should have cut the sprout earlier, I can’t play with it now that I have come this all this way…”

“I’m sorry, oka-san.”

“It’s okay, it’s okay. It is proof that our power had not yet reached all over Middle Earth. I need to increase my power a little more. To obtain any information. So that we can plan anything.”

“I’m going to select reliable factors.”

“Secretly. Understood? For the time being, let’s keep an eye on the situation.”

“Hat!”

Sasuke’s body disappeared in an instant. Chiyou managed to fix her expression by glancing at her face into the dimmed crystal ball and then went back into the barracks.

“You have to think positively. Because climbing to the top is more fun than sitting on the top. Huhut.”

The letter was not immediately delivered to the commander-in-chief.

The Pope’s messenger arrived and delivered the letter to the commander-in-chief, the commander-in-chief’s messenger would come to Luger himself and receive the letter, and he needed to get back to the commander-in-chief.

In other words, it would take time.

“Cough, cough.”

“ Hmmmm.”

“It’s really boring. Isn’t it, Tale-hyungnim?”

“It’s like a kendo competition. There’s no movement, it’s like you’re going to hit your opponent’s head at any moment…


Tale’s analogy was appropriate. Right now, the stillness was quite an unfamiliar environment for those who had been engaged in a fierce battle just before. The vague air current somewhere in the middle where the battle could not be continued and the battle could not be stopped.

As the strange atmosphere engulfed the battlefield, Pei Wu made the first move.

“Master Kay.”

“Oh, ah! Yes, Pei Wu-nim. By the way, are you okay? I lost a lot of HP.”

Hearing Kijung’s words, Pei Wu’s face wrinkled. With the expression of a young man holding back his tears, he bowed and said his thanks.

“Xie xie! Thank you for saving me from that dire situation. If it wasn’t for Master Kay, I would have died already. I am grateful.”

Pei Wu was someone who knew how to be grateful to the person who moved to save him. As a roaring voice resounded throughout the hills, here and there, the members of Hwangryong guild likewise expressed their gratitude to Kijung.

Xie xie! Xie xie!

Thank you, Kay-dage!

“Aigoo! Uh, uh, why are you like this?!”

Kijung was bewildered and looked at Pei Wu, and moved hesitantly as if trying to reciprocate Pei Wu’s gesture.

There was no level-down penalty, but Kijung’s move to save Pei Wu in this kind of war was definitely not something that could be done with ordinary determination.

Most importantly, it was impossible action for an ordinary person to face the attack of Alexander, who was ranked number one. It was no exaggeration to say that it was impossible to see a tanker like Kijung right now.

“Boom.”

“Pfft-! Hahahaha! Laughter leaked out everywhere. The feeling of sudden loosening of the stretched thread spread around the hill.

“Kiskis, anyway our guild master-nim. Even at times like this, you should have pretended to be strong! That’s why people love you.”

“Hey, why would you try to pretend to be strong in front of Pei Wu!”

“Well, I haven’t caught him before either. Kiskis.”

“Hmm, as expected, Pei Wu is a model martial artist. Even though I am not very old, I feel that I already reached that stage.”

Biyemi murmured and teased Kijung, and Tale nodded with a look of admiration.


“Kuwaaaa…”

Seeing his guild members who were more uncomfortable with the situation and Pei Wu, who still bent over, Kijung had no choice but to stand still with a slumped posture.

“Anyway, Kijung. You’re taking care of everything.”

Leeha also looked at the situation with a warm expression. In such a slightly brighter atmosphere, Kidd who was on the hill sneakily walked to Leeha’s side.

“I will admit it.”

A smile hung on his lips as he looked down at the brim of his hat. It was a smile filled with a sense of exhilaration.

“Hmm?

“Hmm?

 What?”

“You made him say it three times.”

As Leeha tilted his head, Kidd pretended not to know what he was doing and bumped into Leeha’s shoulder.

“I made him say it three times? What?”

“There.”

However, when Leeha couldn’t, Kidd pointed his chin. The person subtly pointed was Luger.

“Puha! Ah, that?”

“I didn’t know that man could break his promise. I can assure you, even the Pope of Ezwen will not be able to hear the same thing from him three times.”

Kidd knew it because he had dealt with Luger several times.

The best manner he could do was to say it twice. Moreover, three times? As Luger said right after he appeared, he never warned his opponent more than three times.

“The first is a recommendation. The second is a command, and the third is the shell. Be mindful.”

“Mr. Hat is right.”

“Huh? Lee Jiwon-ssi?”

And then, Lee Jiwon sneakily appeared behind Leeha and Kidd. He looked at Luger and Alexander, then whispered quietly.

“Because he is a man completely crazy about fighting.

He’s so stubborn No, it’s not just about talking, but the way he talks, it’s really wild. Anyway, if that mister comes at you, it won’t be a joke.”

Lee Jiwon spoke like he was complaining, and Leeha and Kidd could not help but laugh. Luger’s eyes widened as laughter spread.

The three of them looked away in an instant and pretended not to know anything.

“Ha Leeha-hyungnim, you have to escape quickly. It would be bad if you stayed here for a long time.”

“You have to listen. No, wait.

By the way, hyungninm? What hyungnim?”

Instead of answering, Lee Jiwon only smiled and raised his thumb. What did he mean? Since when have they become friends? However, the feeling wasn’t bad at all.

“Isn’t Mr. hat guy a hyungnim?”

Kidd mentioned the expression translated to him again and expressed his dissatisfaction, but Lee Jiwon just laughed. With a firm attitude that he would not call him hyungnim unless he had completely acknowledged it, Kidd just snorted.

The gold dragon and Alexander, who floated in the air to shoot Leeha a breath, also came down to the ground again.

『What did you see at the mouth of the abyss, Luger?』

“What do you think I saw? You should already know. Could there be anything else than ‘it’ there?”

『Hmmm…….』

The gold dragon exhaled a long snort.

『I thought you were the one who hit me.』

Luger shook his head at the whispered words.

His eyes quickly scanned the gold dragon’s wounds. There was still a small amount of blood coming out from the cracks in the dragon’s scales. Luger’s expression changed when he saw the wound.

‘I thought he only aimed at Alexander……. Can that gun also pierce dragon scales?’

Luger turned his head slightly and looked at Leeha, and the 『Black Bass』 he was holding.

“You think my bullets will only do that much, dragon.”

『I am also different from back then, Luger. Be courteous to the guardian of order and the executor of justice.』

The voice of the gold dragon gradually grew louder. The dignity that made Kijung, and Byulcho’s members stop their movements as well as Leeha’s laughter.

Those who heard the dignity right in front of them were the most fearless.

“I am different from back then as well reptile. Can you remind me? Let me know if you want to see the inside of your body. I can make a hole for your head too.”

Luger carefully touched the 『Cobalt Blue Python』.

As the messenger of the Holy City, it was an act of reminding them that he was ready to fight anytime, although he could not be the first to start a battle.

“Do not provoke Bailephus. It is enough for me without Bailephus to judge you.”

“If it’s meant to be funny, you failed. If you fight alone, Kidd over there could beat you.”

“……Do you want to count the number of holes in your body, Luger. How dare you say something like that.”

Before Alexander could refute anything, Kidd stepped in and the atmosphere became harsh. However, Kidd’s words were not right either.

“You mean ‘something like that’? So you can beat me, unknown passerby. I could win even without the blade of my spear.”

This time, Alexander touched Kidd.

‘Unknown passerby. There was no way Kidd could stand all when he heard that expression of being looked down on because he didn’t even have a reputation in this position.

“Without the dragon, you cannot touch me. My Crimson Geckos-”

“Ah, ahhh! T-that! What are you doing now? You want to fight again?”

Leeha managed to catch Kidd, who was walking away, from behind. With his coat already half-folded, his expression distorted.

Alexander, with a sullen expression, looked at Kidd, Leeha, and Luger with angry eyes. He didn’t like the fact that the corners of Luger’s lips, who had actually made this happen, were raised.

‘Is that what it means to turn your mouth like that? Isn’t it the right word for a crazy cheap guy?’

Leeha was able to understand exactly what Lee Jiwon said. Luger’s words and deeds, scratching the hearts of those around him and leading the fight were unusual.

As the anxious atmosphere continued, messengers finally arrived and brought Leeha relief.

“Fibiel’s entire army is moving back from the current point! Let me say it again, Fibiel’s army-”

“Retreat?”

“Are you just going away?”

Normal users responded to the messenger’s call.

They still couldn’t figure out the situation. They only knew that Alexander and Fibiel’s army is the same, but had no way of knowing why the war suddenly stopped.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 278

				
 Mister-Canada

“Phew, we can finally rest now-”

Just as Leeha was about to take a breather, the messenger spoke again.

“And the Fibiel army, who faced the gold dragon until the very end, stand by! The commander-in-chief is coming! The commander-in-chief of Minis is also coming, so all of Fibiel’s forces have to disarm and wait!”

“Wow. Commander-in-chief Granville is coming too?”

“What? The commander-in-chief of Fibiel and Minis are going to meet?”

“What did the letter say…?”

Their wish to rest did not come true. After a while, the messenger of Minis arrived, preaching the same message and ordering him to wait.

“Hyung, what will happen now?”

“Well. In any case……”

Leeha, after thinking for a while, looked at the back of the retreating Fibiel users and NPCs in the moonlight and opened his mouth.

“I think the war is over.”

At least, there will be no more than 1 million users in each group fighting together like now. However, it remains to be seen whether that will be the end of the war.

It was because of this that Leeha did not feel any regrets.

“Long time no see, Granville. If it had been a little longer, I would have been able to look down on you from our capital. Maybe it would have looked pretty good even if you were tied on a leash.”

“You’re still the same, ewin. If it had been a little longer, I would have been able to easily reduce your weight by 5kg.”

“In the encirclement, Fibiel would have been defeated. You would have felt terrible to be taken prisoner.”

“Thank you. If Fibiel captured Minis’ capital, you would have been beheaded immediately.”

The commanders of both armies exchanged bloody greetings with warm smiles.

It was on the hill where the last battle took place where Fibiel and Minis’ meeting was being held.


In the name of protecting the commander-in-chief of the Fibiel army, many users remained, and a similar number of users followed the Minis army.

There were a few users in the top 100, but most of them were users whose reputation was not very high. There were people wearing clown costumes or black robes in the middle, but they were not the main force anyway.

It was because Alexander and Bailephus alone could balance the Fibiel elites.

The supreme commanders who took charge of each country’s war had a meeting in a place with a few tables and chairs without any tent.

‘If it was a real war, it would be crazy. In such an open place. The guards have nowhere to hide.’

Of course, no one can do that in Middle Earth.

Leeha stood behind Granville because Luger sat on top of the table where the Minis Commander-in-Chief Ewin and Fibiel Commander-in-Chief sat opposite each other.

“Messenger of Ezwen.”

Ewin, who had been arguing with Granville, opened his mouth.

Without answering, Luger went through his bag and placed an item on the table. Tok-! Ewin nodded as he looked at Luger who made a loud sound.

“Indeed…”

The winged golden key was small but lit by itself. The wings even wriggled as if it was alive.

‘Wow, what is that? Is it a monster? It looks terrible.’

‘Isn’t that one of the Holy City’s relics? And don’t say that anywhere else, hyung! The priests might hit you with a bible!’

Kijung trembled as Leeha frowned and whispered into his ear. In fact, with the exception of Leeha, most of the elite users who knew the settings of Ezwen, the Pope, and Granville looked in amazement.

“I heard that you are a citizen of Fibiel, how did you get the qualifications to be Ezwen’s messenger?”

“It doesn’t matter which I belong to right now, sir Ewin. At least in this case, you can think of me as belonging to Ezwen. You don’t believe it, even if I presented the 『God’s Key』 as evidence?”

At least it wasn’t as provocative as before, but Luger’s way of speaking was still pretentious. Rather, Leeha thought that it was great that he could clearly see the expression of the Minis’ commander-in-chief.

“Cough, well……. I wasn’t suspicious. I am sorry.”

“It’s okay.”


“As expected of a sly fox.”

“Be careful, Granville. You and I have yet to reach an agreement.”

Granville just laughed as he listened to Ewin. He also looked at the relics of the Holy City for a moment and asked Luger.

“How is Pope Gaius IV?”

“He is very anxious right now. It’s because there’s something so urgent that he dispatched me in a hurry. Of course, I was the one who discovered it.”

“What is it? The letter only gave instructions to stop all battles and listen to you. No, there was another word written on it…”

Granville paused for a moment and looked at Ewin. Ewin also received a letter with the same content. The content of the letter was enough to fluster the two commanders-in-chief, so Granville asked Luger what it meant.

“Gaius IV……. The letter said that he would personally enforce the peace treaty himself. Is that true?”

“That’s right.”

It was a proposal for the conclusion of a peace treaty between Fibiel and Minis by the Holy City, ezwen. In effect, it was coercion disguised as a suggestion. They expected it to happen, but when it was confirmed, they were confused.

“Peace Treaty!”

“The end of the war? Are you saying the war is over?”

“Why? Why so suddenly?”

“Then what will we do?”

A peace treaty brought on by force through a third party effectively ended the war.

The surroundings became noisy. It was such a shocking remark that even Leeha, who had a faint feeling that the war was coming to an end, was flustered for a moment.

‘Really? Is it really over? A peace treaty mediated by Ezwen-’ Did Middle Earth aim for this from the beginning? At least, the nature of the peace treaty will be different from that of a peace treaty signed unilaterally by the defeated country.

In fact, compared to surrender, this one looked much more plausible. Most importantly, it will be possible to restore the national balance.

‘No, then why did you start the national war in the first place?? Simple event? It wasn’t bad, but I don’t think it was good either?’

There’s no way this event was made for users to fight and enjoy.


Above all, what happened before the outbreak of the national war? A word suddenly came to Leeha’s mind. 

‘Phase 2. Attack is the best defense-’

As soon as the users who had received the new information had a moment to think for themselves, Granville spoke again.

“The Pope of Ezwen is certainly respected by all nations of the continent. However, how could the Pope speak of mediating the indelible wounds that have occurred between the two countries?”

“That’s what the Pope said too.”

“He said that-”

“When you see this, especially the commander-in-chief of both countries, he said that you would definitely accept.”

Luger interrupted Granville and rummaged through his bag. Another item was placed next to the winged golden key.

“What is that?”

“A hat? Is it an item?”

“Does anyone feel bad……?”

It was a hat. A top hat with a high crown that would be worn by a Victorian gentleman. However, it looked very old, and there was a strange pattern painted on the side of the hat.

It was not because of the pattern or shape that users felt bad. It was because of the strange energy that came from the hat.

‘Kijung-ah, what is that?’

‘Well…… It’s my first time seeing it too.’

Leeha and Kijung did not know what it was. It was only the two of them who were surprised to see the hat on the table. Commander-in-chief Granville trembled and Commander-in-chief Ewin looked at the hat and Luger alternately with his mouth wide open, motionless.

Those were actions that anyone nicknamed ‘Pillar’ and ‘Fox of the Prairie’ would never do.

『A noble’s hat.』

“Pronounce it correctly, dragon. It is Count Le’s hat, the chieftain of the demon noble clan.

『How did you get it?』

“I was about to tell you.”

I got it from the mouth of the abyss.”

『Count Le, no……. I don’t want to give him that rank. Then I will ask you again, did you see a ‘Bluebeard’ in the mouth of the abyss?』

Luger quietly nodded.

『Another one……. Hmmmm…….』

Seeing this, Bailephus signed quietly. Fatigue was evident in the gold dragon’s voice.

The dragon who did not get tired, even when he wiped out Fibiel’s users, and fought with elites, was now tired.

“No…… there’s no way……. Bluebeard died 30 years ago. Dead! Perished!”

“Ewin is right. The division that last stood up to the demon tribe corpse was led by him because I commanded that division! Bluebeard or count, it doesn’t matter. Anyway, le is dead.”

The commanders who were listening to the conversation between the gold dragon and Luger shook their heads. He couldn’t do that. There can be no such thing.

Luger looked at them and snorted.

“Funny old men.”

No one could speak for a while. It took a moment for Granville and Ewin to understand who Luger was talking about.

“What?”

“What did you just say-”

“Dig out the gunk from your ears and listen carefully. While you were wasting your energy uselessly, I entered the mouth of the abyss in the land of the dead.”

“And there, I met Le, who had sealed himself up. Do you understand?”

“You’re saying he’s not dead?”

“Middle Earth is crazy for setting up such settings. He’s not dead. He only pretended to be dead and hid while he was recovering.”

The words Luger spat out in a flash were loud enough to be heard by all the users around him. Granville and Ewin, who were near each other, could not bear to refute his painful words. As he looked at the commander-in-chief and the users around him, Luger uttered his final advice.

“The 3rd human-demon war is upon us. One of the Fragments of the Demon King, Count Le has awakened.”

“That’s why the war started…”

“Huh? What was that, hyung?”

“So…… so that’s why this whole war started. It was for that!”

“W-what are you talking about, hyung? Suddenly…”

After listening to Luger, Leeha was finally able to solve the puzzle. National. The reason why Middle Earth did this and concluded with a peace treaty in an ambiguous form. They had no intention of destroying any country from the beginning.

‘Weakened power!’

Can it be said that they should be glad that there was no level down? However, level was not the only important factor in measuring a user’s power.

What if, in addition to item drops on death, the money and time consumed every time they participated in the battlefield, there would be additional penalties for a negative contribution?

After taking part in the war, it had slowly but surely weakened more than 5 million users of not just Fibiel, but of Minis and Kraven, rather than level up and raising their characters over the course of two months.

A few quick-witted users who heard Leeha were also shocked.

A ‘3rd Human-Demon War’? There were also many people who said.

“What are you talking about?”.

The Important people were able to grasp the whole situation with those words alone, and it was only the ordinary users who did not understand the flow of Middle Earth.

To drain the power of users before the real phase 2 began.

That was the purpose of Middle Earth’s national war.

‘Like doing gymnastics before the guerilla training…”

Leeha’s thoughts were correct for the most part In place of the speechless Granville and Ewin, Bailephus spoke.

『If you met Bluebeard in the mouth of the abyss, how could you be alive right now?』

“You stupid reptile. Didn’t I already say it? Bluebeard was sealed. No, he sealed himself.”

Luger’s expression, which had always been sharp and cynical, became a little stiff.

He managed to open his mouth again.

“For the past month, I have been only underground in the land of the dead. I thought the lab would be in a place where the sun could not reach- no, I was looking for a place. Then I found it.”

Luger slipped and spoke of a lab, but immediately fixed it, but Leeha and Kidd understood. If Luger was trying to find a laboratory, it would be no other than Kaztor’s research lab.

“Obviously it wasn’t a natural cave. It was a maze in the dark with no lights. I went down, relying on only one torch. It was wide and high. At some point, I was confused as to whether I was in the basement or inside a large building. I had some expectations. I believed it must be the place I was looking for.”

Kaztor’s lab can never be natural.

It was a place where a dark elf collected data and conducted research, so the size was not normal. Like the lab Leeha found.

Luger must have been even more convinced that he had already visited several research labs.

He must have been more sure because he saw it

“The basement continued. One floor, each floor was as wide as the first floor. And most importantly, the monsters…… the number and strength of monsters were different from common sense. The commander-in-chief will know what’s coming.”

Luger looked at the commanders as if he was doing a test.

“All the monsters that I met there were large.”

“Winged-Ogres, horned cyclops that used magic, high-trolls riding on mounts…”

Ewin added to Granville’s response. Nightmare-like memories were set for the old knight NPC who remembered the 2nd Human-Demon war…

(To be continued…)
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 “As expected, you know well. There were those guys. And four-handed ogres were piled high.”

“There were? You said there were? Then, did you fight those guys? Alone?”

At Luger’s words, ewin’s eyes widened. Luger nodded. It was understandable that the NPCs as well as the users around them couldn’t believe it.

“Does that make sense? A party is needed to be able to fight a four-handed ogre alone.”

“How about a cyclops? No matter how strong you are…… how can you go into an area where a field boss class monster appears as a normal mob by yourself?”

“What the hell is that? Doesn’t a winged-ogre mean it has wings? That’s horrible!”

Luger opened his mouth again before the shouts of the users could get louder.

“When I reached the 33rd floor, one wall was scratched up. A color that can’t be described simply as darkness of night, a hole so black that you can only think that the graphics of Middle Earth are broken. The torch couldn’t even illuminate it. And there… I saw him. A red crystal was placed in front of a black hole, and a figure with a Bluebeard laid on it. I soon found out what it was and shot it.”

Luger’s fist, which was placed on the table, clenched. Unlike the NPCs, the users understood.

It meant a quest had appeared. The content was probably to kill Le.

“I gave everything I had. The result is this hat.”

“So? Did you at least hurt Le?”

Luger shook his head at Ewin’s question.

『Panzer Faust』, 『Panzer Shrek』“

*****

Kwaaaaang一 Kwaaaaaang—-.

Luger’s bullets were fired toward the bright red crystal.

The blast on the back of the Cobalt Blue Python was also huge, but the dust generated by the bullet hitting the crystal was even greater.

However, all the dust was sucked into the pitch-black darkness.

Luger frowned and looked around.


All monsters that could threaten him had already died. He didn’t know where they spawned, but he was sure that they would not respawn for a while, considering the cycle he observed so far.

 “Phew……. It is an honor to be able to use this against the Demon King’s Fragment.”

Then he grabbed the Cobalt Blue Python His weapon was in its musket form.

The bullets fired by 『Cobalt Blue Python』 were enormous compared to normal iron beads, and now, Luger was using bullets larger than that.

『Cannon Reinforcement: Flat-fire』“

Hwaaaak-!

A deep blue light emanated from the Cobalt Blue Python. After looking satisfactorily at his weapon, which was thicker and slightly longer than before, Luger aimed at the red crystal.

“I found it, a Demon King’s Fragment. Finally, the main quest is mine… ”

He even cast his strongest skill, which he had only recently acquired.

『Jagdpanzer Kanone』!”

Maybe it was because the basement was closed-off, but the loud noise made Luger’s own ears ring. Chhiiing- Even the ringing sound was being sucked into the darkness with smoke.

“Damn it! It’s not useful in a place like this. If it’s not an open space, there are restrictions- hmm?”

Luger was happy and unhappy at the same time, he was happy as he looked at the broken crystal and the quest to destroy the Demon King’s Fragment was cleared, but he was unhappy because he didn’t like the fact that his newly acquired skill was too noisy.

In the midst of those opposing emotions, the sound of footsteps and ticks were heard

“Who-”

“It’s a little early, but…. Thank you, young man. Next time we meet, I will show you love at least once.”

When he looked up, a voice was already coming from behind Luger.

Could it be called dignified? But strangely, the tone was off. Although it was clearly a middle-aged or older male voice, there was some affection in it and felt a bit disgusting.

However, Luger couldn’t pay much attention to the tone of the mans voice.

Because he couldn’t see him. If it wasn’t for the slight weight on his head, he would have treated it as an auditory hallucination.


“Blue B-”

Hwiik!

He immediately turned the Cobalt Blue Python to aim, but there was no longer anyone above him. Only the roar of monsters he could hear from afar hinted at the terrible situation.

Luger stared blankly at the darkness for a moment.

A high-toned laughter echoad with the joyful roar of monsters. What was the ‘thing’ that just passed by? And what did that mean?

“Thank…… you……?”

There was no need to check the broken red crystal twice or thrice. With just the notification window that covered Luger’s eyes, he could tell that ‘Bluebeard, Count Le’ had woken up.

“……Did I… wake you–“? Besides, this achievement.”

A new achievement appeared and the content of the existing quest had been changed.

The content immediately changed to go to Ezwen and to meet the Pope.

Bluebeard hat was placed on Luger’s head with his face filled with complex expression.

“Bluebeard walked out of the crystal, put a hat on me and disappeared. That’s all.”

『A seal? You said Le sealed himself. So he came out after you released the sound.』

“That’s right.”

Luger answered without hesitation. As if it had nothing to do with him.

『You gave everything you had, but you didn’t hurt Le, so he gave you a hat and left.』

“That’s right.”

『Why didn’t he hurt you?』

“I don’t know. I immediately rushed to Ezwen, and this happened after Pope Gaius IV checked this hat.”

Despite Bailephus’ surprising questions, Luger spoke fluently. The faces of the commanders listening to the conversation between the dragon and Luger almost became determined.


There was someone who directly witnessed the appearance of the Demon King’s Fragment. The Pope endorsed the sighting and arbitrated for the peace treaty. The rest was simple.

“What are you going to do, Pillar?”

“Someone must to take responsibility for the attempted assassination of Fibiel’s king, but…. At least I know that it is not now, fox of the prairie.”

“You may look for me anytime. Such an absurd reason for an invasion would only be recorded as a stain in history.”

“History is written by the victors. Rest assured, minis will not record anything.”

Ewin tried to respond to Granville’s last words, but Granville was a little faster.

“As of the present time, Fibiel and Minis will enter a ceasefire until the peace treaty is signed. The two countries are prohibited to engage in battle regardless of the warzone, and the borders and territories will be discussed later before the conclusion of the peace treaty. Does the commander-in-chief of Minis agree to this?”

“No, no, why are we talking about borders and territories when we have a great siege and your army is getting ‘saved’? Rather, from ‘Minis’ perspective, shouldn’t we claim damages for the illegal and violent invasion?”

Ewin certainly paid back what he had just suffered.

The fox of the prairie did not easily fall for the provisions that Granville had slyly put.

‘I knew it would be like this, but a non-unilateral ceasefire is not possible!’

Leeha-ha was nervous watching the fiery war of nerves between the two NPCs.

In Kraven’s case, it was easy. There was no territorial dispute, because the winner of the defense war, Fibiel, kicked out the invading army, Kraven They only needed to talk about the loss of ships and take it. What if they didn’t listen? The winner, Fibiel, could cross over Kraven’s seas and subdue them.

However, it wasn’t possible right now. Strictly speaking, it’s impossible to say who won for sure.’

What if Leeha hit Alexander? What if Alexander avoided the shot? Or what if the breath was blown out? would Lee Jiwon been able to attack? Could it be that the other Minis elite forces were just watching?

How will they deal with the combination of Faust and Crowley, who was already close to the Fibiel army’s back?

With that wall there, can it be called a victory for Minis? What should Battle Commander Burke and his soldiers see as they are moving hard from Dike Beach to the marching plains?

‘This is driving me crazy. Who can guarantee that?’

It was unclear to Leeha. At that last moment, if it hadn’t been for Luger, woud he have been able to hit? Could he have benefited from Hyein’s magic stopping effect?

However, there are no assumptions in history.

There was nothing more difficult than revisiting the past.

Especially right now. There were a few things Granville could say.

“……Everything about the conflict between the two countries shall be decided, including the main witnesses, at the time of signing the peace treaty later. Is that okay, ewin?”

“That makes sense. The Commander-in-Chief of Minis agrees with the proposal of the Commander-in-Chief of Fibiel, and promises the honor and national prestige between the two parties” They put it behind them. They had to work together now. When Granville and Ewin shook hands, a fanfare resounded in the minds of all users.

『A temporary truce has been established between Minis and Fibiel.』

『Truce period: Until the conclusion of the peace treaty』

『Agreed by : Commander-in-Chief Granville and Commander-in-Chief Ewin』

Fibiel’s Side – The Pillar, commander-in-Chief Granville

Minis’ Side – Fox of the Prairie, commander-in-Chief Ewin』

The war is over. But this is only just another beginning.

『The quest for the outbreak of the national war has ended.』

『Obtained 4,611 war contribution points.』

『The conscription of users who participated in the war has been cancelled.』

『The relationship between the other countries are restored to normal.』

『After this… the penalties for indiscriminate attack will be applied.』

『Compensation based on acquired contribution points will be announced at a later date.』

『Accumulated contribution: 35,857』

『A private event for users with the highest contribution will be held in each country.』

“A truce!”

“Whaaaat-! Amaaaaazing! My contribution!”

“Damn it! My contribution is -800! Just a few more days of war!”

“Pheww, I barely removed the negative points. It was dogshit. How many did you get?”

“I got 97. Jackpot! The final contribution is 283.”

“Wow, your contribution is very high. I only have 192.”

“Heuheu, I only died once since Marching Plains, and I have been on a roll since! It would have been absurd if I did not get this much.”

Users were excited regardless if they were from Fibiel or Minis.

Maybe because they had only just heard the terrible news about the Demon King’s Fragment, but the users focused on the rewards in front of them rather than how they were going to move in the future.

‘It’s the compensation for the last battle. They still have conscience.’

Leeha leisurely read the notification that floated in front of him. At the time of the quest to carry out the destruction of the keystones before the siege, he had gained around 3,000 points. However, in the last battle, he earned 4,000 points. Leeha saw what it meant.

‘Blocking the advance of Alexander and the gold dragon. Was it interpreted that attracting them and damaging them contributed tremendously from Fibiel’s point of view? Well, it’s true. It’s embarrassing, but I like it.’

It was a cooperative operation but the final blow to Bailephus was from Leeha.

It meant that he got a huge amount of contribution thanks to that, but how great was Alexander and Bailephus, the beings who gave 4,000 points of contribution just by dealing damage to them?

Of course, I couldn’t help but feel a little bitter about it.

『Is the war over?』

“It’s not the perfect end, but at least for now, we won’t be aiming our blades at each other, dragon.”

Granville answered Bailephus’ words. A peace treaty must be signed for a true end to the war. The ceasefire could literally end at any time, but with the involvement of the Pope it could be seen as equivalent to having a peace treaty.

『Hmmm…….』

“As expected, there was something.”

Watching the gold dragon’s attittude, Kidd muttered quietly.

It was Alexander who had been trying to say something since he first appeared. Of course, Alexander must have heard it from Bailephus. The gold dragon sorted the noisy atmosphere and calmed the users around him.

-Listen quietly, humans. I will tell you why I have kept you alive.

“H-Hyung?”

“Shh. I can hear it too.”

Is the level just the standard. Or was it the matter of attittude? Maybe it’s the sum of stats. Leeha and Kijung quietly listened to the message of the gold dragon, which was heard by selected people based on an unknown criteria.

-I went to your useless war with my friend to find a dragon that disappeared a long time ago. He is a member of the red dragon clan.

He was the strongest of dragons. And my oldest enemy…

(To be continued…)
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 ‘If it’s a chromatic dragon, it would be called a chromatic dragon. The setting…… how did it get caught?’

 Dragons have strong bodies, adept at magic, and have formidable breath. Their lifespan was long, their intelligence and knowledge were overwhelming, and they could converse with humans. Therefore, they were difficult to attack. There were two types of dragons, metal dragons, and chromatic dragons.

This was the dragon’s setting that Leeha roughly knew. It was not even recorded on the website that it was divided.

Only those who have found related materials within Middle Earth would be able to fully understand what is being said.

Bailephus: His mana disappearance could not be seen as a disappearance or an accident. Additionally, there is no way that a red dragon with that kind of power would be hunted down by humans. Then there’s only one left. When I heard Bluebeard was away, I was more convinced.

‘If the gold dragon calls it an old rival, it means that it’s as strong as him. Surely a few users would not have been able to gather and raid it.’

The gold dragon must have searched thoroughly because it was its old rival.

And it’s not like he was just running around looking for something that’s gone, worrying about it. Leeha waited for the gold dragon to speak for his reason.

Bailephus: The red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’shi will probably try to revive 『Tiamat』. The queen of the chromatic dragon sympathized with the Devil, and if she is revived, there wouldn’t even be ashes left of humans. Find Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh to save yourself. And bring me the information. If this leaks out, his behavior will become even more unpredictable, so it should be kept very secret.

‘Tiamat? I think I heard it somewhere.’

As Leeha tilted his head, Bailephus’ head spun. The gold dragon clearly remembered whoever had wounded him.

Leeha: Luger’s companion- no……. What is your name?

‘Oh? Ohh? Me? No, he won’t hear me like this.’

Leeha started in surprise.

The gold dragon’s eye looked at Leeha with a calm look. Leeha tried to talk to Bailephus in a hurry as if whispering into its ear.

Leeha: Ha- Ha Leeha. It’s Ha Leeha.

Bialephus: Ha Leeha……. I will remember your name, together with Luger and Lee Jiwon. For the sake of the order of the continent, your power must be fully preserved. You must find Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and stop Tiamat from reviving. I hope you don’t even dare dream of seeing her six heads together again.

The gold dragon’s body shone. And the light leaked out and headed toward the three of them.

The users around them looked nervous. Before the battle began, Bailephus had said that he would not keep those who wounded him alive. In other words, it looked like the gold dragon cast magic to kill and tear the three of them.

『The gold dragon Bailephus has cast a spell on you.』


『Continious buff – Bailephus’ Blessing』

‘Hut…’

Leeha too blinked for a moment as he saw the light approach him, but was relieved by seeing the explanation window that immediately appeared.

『Bailephus’ Blessing』

Description: The gold dragon clan wants to build a lasting relationship with those they acknowledge. The gold dragon’s mana will always surround you.

Effect: Immediate contact with Gold Dragon +15% fire resistance

Intimacy with Metal Dragons +50%, intimacy with Chromatic Dragons -80%

‘Oh……?’

Blessing? Besides, the effect is great. Aside from the intimacy with dragons, there was also +15% fire resistance! Most importantly, the fact that it was buff magic and had no duration attracted Leeha’s attention.

‘Like the expression that it is always wrapped around, will it last indefinitely?’

Leeha opened his eyes and looked at Lee Jiwon and Luger. However, it was the same for the two of them who could not understand the situation. It was because both Luger and Lee Jiwon were looking at Alexander with their eyes opened wider than Leeha’s.

Leeha knew that he got it because of the current war, but what about the other two? They were looking for a chance to kill Alexander. Does that mean he gave the blessing to such people as well?

‘Whether to say that the distribution is large or that this case is that important.’

Anyway, there was no reason for Leeha to feel bad about it.

-Thank you, gold dragon.

Leeha and Lee Jiwon both bowed their heads. Luger stared at Bailephus with his head upright.

『I have to leave, Alexander.』

“Hmmm.”

The gold dragon flew up. 『Don’t forget, humans!』

The number one in the rankings, the Dragon Knight, has left behind the normal users who were still buzzing about the issue of contributions, and the elites who were confused while listening to Bailephus’ words in their heads.


The moment Alexander left and the commanders of each country turned their backs after exchanging glances with each other, the place was quickly cleared up. There was even a message stating that the contribution was taken care of, and the reward would be announced later because users did not have to stay connected.

“Let’s go pick up some items~”

“There may still be some left, but I will only take 3 people~ it’s first come, first serve!”

Some people shouted out for items that might remain in the battlefield, but there weren’t many who went along with it. Most of them started to disperse using return magic, and some just logged out on the spot.

“Uuuuuugh, I’m tired. The war is over, but I feel a bit sad.”

“I know, right? Bluebeard, Count Le, t-that Dragon Nugget. I can’t remember its name.”

Leeha scratched his head at Kijung’s words. The end is the end, but they felt that it wasn’t really the end.

“Kiskis, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’shi. Among the chromatic dragons, he is the most ferocious of the red dragon clan. Bailephus said he’d remember your name, but how can you forget that, halihali-nim.”

“I-I didn’t! I just wasn’t able to think of it for a second. By the way Biyemi-nim, do you know the settings of those dragons?”

Looking at the Lizardia showing his teeth, Leeha asked. Among the users that Leeha knew, Biyemi is the one who was most familiar with the Middle Earth universe. And Biyemi lived up to Leeha’s expectations.

“Well……. I learned about it when I was in Midnight Circus.”

“Really?”

“I had a quest to steal a dragon’s egg once, but I refused. No matter how crazy I am, I could not do that.”

“Then that- Metal? Chromatic? What is their difference?”

“Something similar to the relationship of Fibiel and Minis? Kikis. They are both dragons, but they are hostile to each other. Not for the country, but their own disposition.”

“Disposition…”

Biyemi gave a brief lecture.

Metal dragons defend good and enforce justice.

Like the word ‘Metal’ suggests, they are divided into minerals such as gold, silver, and bronze, and their absolute is a platinum dragon.

His name is Bahamut.


“Kikis, the chromatic dragons are exactly the opposite. They are greedy dragons that only move for their self-interest. They are dragons with evil natures, and they are distinguished by the name of the chromatic system, just like the white dragon that users raid. It is said that they were on the side of the Demon King’s army during the second Human-Demon war.”

“Hoe…”

“And their absolute is Tiamat. A six-headed dragon. All I know is that 6 kinds of chromatic dragons merged and share one body. Even the head of the Midnight Circus doesn’t know more than that. It is said that Tiamat did not appear in the Second Human-Demon War. Because Bahamut and the Metal Dragons stood on the side of humanity, they were able to drive out the Demon King’s Fragment and the chromatic dragons…. Kikis, that is what I was told.”

“It seems the head of the Midnight Circus also participated in the second Human-Demon war.”

Biyemi nodded at Tale’s words Biyemi’s short lecture was heard by all of the Byulcho Special force.

Following Biyemi’s explanation, Leeha suddenly felt envious.

‘The master NPC over there seems to be kind enough to explain that.’

How much kinder were they compared to his instructor, the NPC Browless, who tells him to ‘come and find me’! When Leeha was thinking like that, Kijung smiled and approached Leeha.

“It’s not some kind of Voltron, merging…. Hehe, by the way, what did the gold dragon do earlier? Did he cast a spell?”

“Yeah, well, it’s a magic-”

“What kind of spell was it?”

Along with the stepping sound, a voice was heard that pierced the ear. A woman’s voice was clearly audible even though the surrounding situation was still noisy. Everyone, including Leeha and Kijung, turned their eyes.

“W-why……?”

“Oh, nice to meet you, are you Fibiel’s Ha Leeha…?”

“Ah, yes. That’s right.”

Leeha nodded. Chwaaak-! The woman spread her fan in an instant and covered her mouth. Two crescent moons floated on the fan. Seeing her smile, Kijung laughed softly.

“Uhut, it’s nice to meet you. Very nice. I am Chiyou.”

Kijung’s expression hardened at that greeting.

“Chiyou! Are you the ranker Chiyou? 7th in the ranking, the Dancer of Minis Kingdom, Chiyou?”

“Uheung, what 7th place? I was just lucky. And saying the Minis Kingdom so rigidly? The war is already over. Don’t you think so, Leeha-nim?”

“Oh, ah, yes. But what…… do you need?”

She grumbled mixed with a nasal voice. Then, she slowly approached Leeha.

Leeha remained vigilant. He did not know what was happening. He was facing the dancer who was 7th in the ranking, the only person in the top 10 rankings who did not participate in the war.

‘Nara-ssi could not help because she remained to protect the palace, but what about this person?’

Shin Nara, ranked 6th, belongs to the Sacred Knights. Even when the war broke out, her duties were to faithfully secure the capital and protect the king.. But what about this woman? What mission did he do in the war?

“You’re tougher than I thought, don’t you like my greeting?”

“No, it’s not- that-”

“I came to see the person who was able to make a truce with Kraven’s Drake and defeat Alexander. Uheung, should I say I am a fan of Ha Leeha-nim?”

Chiyou, who still covered half her face with a fan, winked.

Looking at her, Kijung’s expression softened again. He did not mean to do that. With arrowlike curved eyebrows that looked cute. It was a face that was capable of naturally attracting men.

“You’re a fan? Hoho, I will be watching out.”

“Don’t be so wary I am no longer an enemy.”

“That’s right. You’re no longer an enemy. Ah, may I ask you something?”

“Yes! Sure! Do you want to add me as a friend? Huhut.”

Chiyou tilted her head by 15 degrees and looked at Leeha with a smile. It seemed that Leeha’s heart pounded from that cuteness, but now Leeha was more certain.

“Where were you during the war? What did you do? The 7th in the ranking would have been a great help to Minis.”

Leeha’s eyes shone. What did she do?

Alexander was not the most dangerous person in the war. It wasn’t Petyr either.

The enemy who tormented him ‘behind the scenes’ was what Leeha considered to be the most dangerous enemy”. Perhaps it was this woman who had devised and commanded the strategy from the Marching Plains and tormented Leeha until the end.

It was Leeha’s hunch.

“I can’t tell you that, can I?”

“Why? Maybe Chiyou-nim-”

Shwoook- Before Leeha could say anything, she moved close to him. Small blades glistened from behind the fan. The long thin needle barely stopped before reaching Leeha’s chin. Her hand stopped, and the only thing that moved was her upper body. Her face touched Leeha’s ears.

“I can’t reveal an assassin’s movement, can I? Huuu.”

It took less than a second for her to blow air into Leeha’s ear and get away from Leeha again. The long needle in her hand had already disappeared.

“H-Hyung!”

“Leeha-kun.”

“O-Oh- it’s fine. I’m okay, Kijung-ah. She didn’t attack.”

Kijung and Tale approached at the sudden movement. However, they did not see Chiyou’s needle.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha believed that she had noticed his intentions to test her and deliberately overreacted, even showing him a needle.

“Does this answer your question?”

“Yes, well… I understand roughly.”

“Uhuhut, how cute. Now that the war is over, let’s stay in touch. I came just to say hello today, so hopefully, next time we can have tea in a nice place.”

Chiyou slightly bent her knees and greeted politely before returning to the Minis formation.

“Yeah, she’s certainly pretty, but her movements are no joke. As expected, a Ranker is really something.”

“That swift movement was indeed a surprising strike. They say the Japanese are like a chrysanthemum and a sword, and it truly fits…”

“Haihai, what did that woman say?”

Kijung and Tale only admired her, but Biyemi’s eyes turned sharp.

“Oh, not much. I thought of something and wanted to ask, but it seems it’s not her. She said she’s an assassin class.”

Leeha closely watched Chiyou’s departing figure. He didn’t trust her words 100%, but he also had no proof she was the mastermind of the plot.

‘She’s still a suspicious woman… but the chances of her being the ‘invisible enemy’ are slim. After all, it’s strange to reveal her face needlessly.’

If she were truly the one, she would have tried to hide her identity as much as possible. Then, who on earth was commanding the operations within Minis?

‘Aside from Commander Ewin, there must be someone else who is not only proficient in the information of Minis-associated users but also capable of communicating and commanding them…’

For a moment, the name Alexander crossed his mind but was soon dismissed. He knew from experience; Alexander wasn’t that type. He was more likely to wipe everything out by himself. Then could it be Petyr? Or perhaps an outsider who wasn’t even a Ranker?

While Leeha’s thoughts continued to spiral, Biyemi quietly commented.

“An assassin… A self-proclaimed assassin… Keek, interesting.”

While Lizardia’s eyes sparkled as she watched Chiyou, another woman’s voice came from behind them.

“What’s so interesting? Hmph, you guys are still the same, smirking at every pretty face, Leeha.”

With arms crossed, Ram Hwayeon looked at the Special Task Force and Leeha. Behind her was Lee Jiwon, waving his hand towards Leeha, with Kidd and Luger standing awkwardly.


* * *

“Who’s that?”

“What’s what?”

“The woman who was about to cling onto you just now, who is she?”

“Cling onto me? No way! Her name’s Chiyou, she’s an assassin from the enemy nation.”

“Le-really?”

The sharp glare from Ram Hwayeon softened. Leeha couldn’t understand why he felt flustered by her questions.

More baffling was how Ram Hwayeon always appeared precisely when he was with women users, like a ghost.

“Hmph, fine then. We are heading to Fibiel, right?”

“Yeah, we should.”

“There’s time… Won’t you stop by Castle Dale for a moment?”

“Why?”

“Just… because you helped heal me before. Let’s go together…”

Ram Hwayeon slightly lowered her head.

“Heal? Oh, you mean when you were injured? I didn’t heal you; the healers around did. But why go together?”

What was she trying to say? To go hunting together? Leeha briefly pondered if there was a place near Castle Dale where he could level up. Ram Hwayeon, who was mumbling, suddenly shouted.

“I mean, to collect the settlement money! Hmph, make sure you contact me and drop by. Got it?”

“Oh?! Oh, oh, sure, sure, I will.”

Ram Hwayeon swiftly turned around and disappeared.

‘I’m crazy, I’m so crazy. Why did I do that?!’


When isolated and cut off from supplies on the Plains of March, the first person she thought of was Leeha. When she finally got in touch and chain teleported to him, she could feel her emotions.

‘It was because I had no HP, yeah, that must be it! Let’s get back to work quickly!’

Shaking her head, Ram Hwayeon forced herself to calculate the losses from the supply line destruction and the sudden end of the war, then disappeared to Castle Dale through a crystal ball.

“Phew, she seems scarier than I thought, Leeha-hyung.”

“Ah, Lee Jiwon… But why do you keep calling me hyung—”

“Because you’re my hyung, that’s why. I just came to say hello. Next time we have a chance to take down Alexander, I’ll call you. You have to come, agreed? Oh, Bo-gam~”

“What? What are you talking about? And fighting Alexander?”

Lee Jiwon’s communication skills were still lacking. It was unclear whether he completely understood what Leeha said.

Moreover, despite clearly hearing the words of the Gold Dragon, what was that strange remark? As Lee Jiwon looked at Leeha’s baffled expression, he smiled—a smile as pure as a young boy’s.

“Whether you care or not, it’s none of my business. Placing a blessing on me? That’s insane. Everyone knows a crazy dragon is best sliced and diced, right? Anyway, I’m leaving!”

With a wave, Lee Jiwon turned and ran off. Kidd, who had been awkwardly standing with Lugher, quickly followed suit. The purpose of his approach was clear just from the state of the item he held, the ‘Cobalt Blue Python.’

“Stop, Lee Jiwon!”

“Aaargh, get lost! You crazy old geezer!”

Swoosh―!

Lee Jiwon’s body vanished in an instant. The Musketeer couldn’t follow the Magic Swordsman who had disappeared using teleportation.

“…Old geezer?”

“Ahem, hmph.”

“Huh?”

Leeha, Kidd, the Expert Taskforce members, and all other nearby users tried to ignore Lugher’s murmur. Kidd subtly approached Leeha.

“It’s best if we leave quickly before more people notice.”


“Why? Because Lugher wants to fight?”

“If you know, then don’t ask. I’m leaving now. Naturally, the Three Musketeers’ teleport skills are―”

“Okay, obviously we need to deactivate them. Let’s disappear while everyone’s still panicking. See you next time, Kidd.”

As Kidd listened to Leeha’s words, he nodded. Soon, with a whoosh―! he vanished as well.

Before Lugher, who was still muttering “What does old geezer mean?”, could regain his senses, Leeha needed to hide himself.

“Kijung, let’s go!”

“Yes, hyung. Expert Taskforce! Everyone, return! Great job, everyone, let’s have a party next time!”

Yes, Guild Master! Thank you, Ha Leeha!

“Oh, what thanks― Oh no, Lugher has regained his senses, run!”

Lugher’s head snapped up at the loud voices of the guild members. Leeha hastily took out a teleport scroll.

“Stop, [Accuracy]! I need to ask you about your―”

“Aaah! Why are you pointing your weapon while saying that?”

Lugher’s demeanor clearly indicated that it was not a mere question but a threat to kill if unanswered. Riiip― Leeha tore the scroll.

Even in that last moment, he saw Lugher rushing towards him with a frown, but the image quickly disappeared.

Leeha found himself in the capital of Fibiel, Aelstock, in an instant.

“Whew… it’s really over.”

He had traveled from near Minis’ capital to Fibiel’s capital in one go. With the mana interference gone and all the whisper and teleport restrictions lifted, he finally realized the war had ended.

Leeha felt the strength drain from his body. Perhaps it was because he had absorbed so much information at once and thought about it excessively. However, now was not the time to be overwhelmed by such information.

“When it’s time to rest, you must rest properly!”

After taking a brief glance around the bustling and lively streets of Aelstock, Leeha prepared to log out. Throughout the war, he had barely had any proper sleep, so how much fatigue had he accumulated?

“I need to sleep for at least 24 hours straight.”

The national war between Fibiel and Minis-Kraven, which had seen much controversy and commotion, would be recorded in the history of Middle Earth.

At the center of those records, Ha Leeha’s name was prominently etched. The increasing fame carried by rumors far surpassed Leeha’s previous endeavors.

Finally, Leeha had made a name for himself among the Outsiders.

However, the tasks that would make Leeha’s fame skyrocket were still far from over. The rewards based on contributions hadn’t even started yet.

“Okay, okay!”

Leeha happily logged out.

* * *

“Son, son! How long are you going to sleep? At least eat something!”

“Uuuugh… What time is it?”

“Eight in the evening!”

“Only 12 hours have passed… I’ll sleep a bit more.”

Leeha sluggishly pulled up the blanket. Falling asleep just as the morning sun rose, he now found himself awake at barely 8 PM? However, his mother was utterly astonished.

“You! You! You’ve been asleep since 8 AM yesterday!”

“…What?”

“Ugh, I should have known! Once you get absorbed in something, you completely lose track! Who sleeps for 36 hours straight? Get up, quickly! Quickly!”

Leeha’s mother spanked his behind. Although it had no impact due to lower body paralysis, Leeha was momentarily stunned by her words.

“Yesterday morning? I’ve been asleep for nearly two days?”

“Yes! Do you remember calling me to use the restroom now and then?”

“…Did I?”

He had no recollection at all.

Was this what true unconsciousness felt like? He felt as if he had been dreaming. Despite his body still feeling heavy with accumulated fatigue, he realized he had slept for over 36 hours.

‘I must have really overdone it with the battles.’

Since the victorious report on Plains of March, he had thought his sleep patterns had stabilized in line with the war’s flow, but apparently, that wasn’t the case.

Leeha slowly got up.

Confirming the passage of 36 hours, he noticed three missed calls and over twenty messages from Kijung, chuckling wryly as he saw them.

[Hyung, how long are you going to sleep?! We’ve got an announcement!! Wake up, now!!!!!!]

‘Good grief.’

Leeha checked Kijung’s messages but decided not to rush. More important was not to disappoint his mother, who looked at him with concerned eyes.

‘I’ll see the reward announcement sooner or later anyway.’

While he slept, nearly two weeks would have passed in Middle Earth. In reality, concluding the post-war procedures would take quite some time, but the AI processed everything much faster than humans could.

“Come eat! And no capsules until you’ve eaten and washed up for the night.”

“Oh, don’t worry, mother.”

As Leeha settled at the dining table with the most filial expression ever, his mother, relieved, picked up her spoon. Leeha knew well how much his mother struggled with her low-paying job. As he ate, another thought crossed his mind.

“Ah, mom, about that restaurant you’re working at now.”

“Huh? Restaurant?”

“Yeah. How much would it cost to start something like that, about that size, around 50 pyeong (165 square meters)?”

“About that much…? Why are you talking about opening a restaurant all of a sudden?”

Feigning nonchalance, Leeha took a bite of radish kimchi.

“Just thinking… if we set up something like that, wouldn’t it make things easier for you? You wouldn’t even stay at home if you were told to rest anyway. You could watch the counter and help in the kitchen when bored—”

“Oh, stop it. Just the thought is already enough. Restaurants are for those who know the business. Handling money unwisely can bring big trouble. Focus on getting your legs better. I’m saving up diligently too.”

Of course. Leeha nodded knowingly at his mother’s answer. He expected any conversation revolving around money to circle back to concerns over his legs for the time being.

However, Leeha wasn’t just going to back down.

“That’s why I think opening a restaurant would help. Mom, you have such great cooking skills! Attract more customers, earn money, and I’ll earn my share too! That way, we can fix my legs even faster! It just seems like the quicker path.”

He wondered how she would react to that. Leeha’s mother’s eyes widened momentarily before she quickly sipped her soup.

“If it’s truly possible… that’d be great, but…”

Quick calculations ran through her mind. Most importantly, she found the idea of developing her own ambitions and hopes appealing. It also resolved the issue of unreliable and irregular income from her son’s earnings inside the capsule.

It was better for her to engage in business herself than blindly waiting for his income. Leeha knew his mother would reach that conclusion.

“Regardless, I’ll handle the money part, maybe I can manage something. Do you know any reliable local real estate agents?”

“There’s a small auction company above our restaurant. One of its frequent diners, the representative, seemed quite capable. Should I ask him? He said to reach out if looking for affordable properties.”

“Is he trustworthy?”

“His name is Lee Subaek, seems fine. He hands out business cards calling himself the ‘Auction King.’ I have his card somewhere—”

“No need to look for it now. But anyone calling themselves a king is usually dubious… especially an Auction King Lee Subaek. Anyway, I’ll leave this to you. Let me know when something comes up, and I’ll visit with you. How’s that?”

“Okay, sure. But don’t overdo it. We are just gathering information for now.”

Hearing his mother’s raised and faster tone, Leeha smiled.

‘Shopping itself is the most thrilling when you’re choosing, ordering, and waiting for delivery.’

It had been a while since he saw his mother so excited. His suggestion, although initially for her, ended up empowering him too.

It was clear that setting up a restaurant would be far more feasible than the minimum 2 billion or possibly 3 billion needed for his treatment. Concrete and realistic goals cultivate greater will and desire.

After enjoying a meal with his mother, Leeha sent a message to Kijung.
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“Hey, hyung! What were you doing? I told you to call me right away!”

“Ear-splitting, Kijung-ah. What’s up? Can’t you just tell me when I’m logged in?”

The call came immediately, and Kijung’s voice was incredibly loud and clear. It was evident how excited he was.

“You’d better check the internet and log in! Hahaha, this is ridiculous.”

“What’s so ridiculous this time?”

“Just log in quickly. It’s about the current war update… no, it’s better to say the community. There’s a summary table there.”

What kind of commotion was this for Kijung to rush him like this? Leeha quickly went to his computer and logged into the community.

“What the heck…?”

“Did you see it? Amazing, right? Isn’t it cool? Hahaha, hyung!! Hyuuuuuung!!!”

Even though he could only hear laughter through the phone, Leeha could almost see Kijung’s face.

**『Title: ★All Fibiel players praise Ha Leeha★』**

**『Title: LOL I once partied with Ha Leeha, never thought it would turn out like this』**

**『Title: But how did that person eat like this? Didn’t they work with friends from the enemy country for contributions?』**

**『Title: Kraven’s No.1 Drake, Minis’s No.1 Alexander, Fibiel’s No.1 unknown LOL Fibiel’s level is a joke LOL』**

**『Title: Request to upload text file summarizing main contributors for Fibiel』**

The constantly updating posts were all war-related chatter.

And over 90% of that chatter was about the ‘reward announcement’ Kijung mentioned.

By just skimming through the titles, Leeha could understand the contents of the reward announcement.

“No way, did they reveal the top contributors?”

“Yes! And not just the top! On the homepage, they listed the top ten contributors, and above that—above that, hyung’s name was there!”


With a dumbfounded expression, Leeha clicked on one of the posts.

**『Title: Request to upload text file summarizing main contributors for Fibiel』**

1st Contributor―Ha Leeha: Contribution 35,878

2nd Contributor―Granville: Contribution 14,556

3rd Contributor―Pei Wu: Contribution 8,044

4th Contributor―Ram Hwajung: Contribution 6,861

5th Contributor―Ram Hwayeon: Contribution 10,000 → reduced to 5,000

6th Contributor: Rush Guild Master; 7th Contributor: Kidd; 8th Contributor: NPC; 9th Contributor: Byulcho Guild Master; 10th Contributor: Shin Nara.

But how did he manage to beat the top NPC commander? And by more than double the difference, totally insane. Minis having Alexander makes sense at least…

“Isn’t Ram Hwayeon more amazing? Ram Hwajung is at 6,800 but Ram Hwayeon at 5,000?”

└If it wasn’t reduced, she’d be the third contributor level ㄷㄷ Well, we could overlook the NPC commander, but she’s the top among players ㄷㄷ.

└Why was it reduced?

└Rumor says she made a huge mistake at the end…

“I’m at -1,000, but someone else is at +35,000? Damn, can’t even play this game anymore.”

└LOL, I’m at -400 too. Seeing your score makes me feel better.

“The guild master of Rush did well among non-rankers.”

└Byulcho guild master is there too. Rush’s guild master got money and people, but Byulcho’s guild master is the real deal.

“Wow… The difference is more than I thought.”

Leeha wasn’t surprised to be ranked first. He knew well that none of the players had contributed more than he did. However, considering the competition included NPC commanders, it seemed unfair.

The most shocking part for Leeha was that he outscored the top NPC commander by a significant difference.


And the second surprise was seeing another familiar name among the top ten contributors.

“Kijung?! You—”

“Did you see? Did you see? Thanks, hyung! Because of you, there’s chaos. Our guild’s website is swamped with membership requests! Taesil hyung is staying up all night reviewing applications!”

Title: The Esteemed Master Kay of the Special Forces

In recognition of his exceptional performance and leadership, he was acknowledged as having admirably led the Special Forces, which essentially thrived under his command without Leeha.

‘An NPC from the eighth division was one of the division commanders who led the Vikrimor River Invasion route. This means that not only the supreme commander but every single NPC that participated in the war was in direct competition.’

Kijung must have felt immensely proud to have his name prominently featured among them.

Leeha had ample reason to desperately call and leave a message.

―You know, a lot of people recorded our last battle with Alexander. Our names are constantly popping up on YouTube and foreign broadcasts, hyung. Hehe.

“Really? What about preventing recordings?”

―Of course, there were measures. But you know how determined people can be. They managed to record from a sufficient distance. The footage is a bit blurry, but those in the know can recognize it. Remember Rush Guild leader ‘Ron’? He’s already been on TV and even mentioned you in his interviews! Do you want me to send you the YouTube link?

“No, no. I think it will just be embarrassing to watch.”

Ron was someone who had subtly suggested that Leeha join his guild. He surely wouldn’t say anything bad about him.

―More than just embarrassing. He’s afraid of you, hyung.

“What?”

It turned out, Leeha was too innocent in his assumptions. Ron didn’t speak highly of him just to win his favor.

―Ahem, let me read it out to you verbatim.

‘Speaking recklessly about him will result in your head being blown off the moment you log in, without even knowing his location. Yet, it’s a boon in a way. If you get logged out with one hit, without knowing who the attacker was, you can be sure it was Ha Leeha. He has shown the most remarkable skills of any Middle Earth user I’ve ever seen. Even Alexander sitting here would say the same.’

Kijung cleared his throat again after finishing the excerpt from Ron’s interview about Leeha. Leeha couldn’t hide his astonished expression as he listened to Kijung.

“… I’m not some psychopath to shoot someone in the head just because they didn’t compliment me.”


―Hehe, it’s probably an American joke. But, there’s some truth to it. He knows better than to speak wrongly.

Leeha was seen as a figure of fear and reverence even among his allies, except for a few close friends. He wasn’t sure whether to feel good or bad about this peculiar reputation.

―Anyway, log in quickly! The reward period is up in a week’s time in Middle Earth’s calendar, so don’t forget!

“Of course. I’m logging in now.”

―Okay, I’ll tell you more about the rewards once you’re in!

A cute younger hyung who gathered and conveyed information without needing to be asked. Leeha couldn’t help but smile at the cheerful voice of Kijung.

* * *

“Kijung!”

“Hyung! Hyung! You’re here? I was just saying about the rewards―”

“Hold on, Kijung. Before we get into that!”

“Huh?”

As soon as he logged in, Kijung rushed to him like a big, excited puppy. Leeha calmed him down first.

There was no point in obsessing over rewards that were already decided and couldn’t be received any faster. There was something more important for Leeha.

“Do you have any information about the Third Battle of Humans and Demons?”

“The Third Battle of Humans and Demons?”

“You know, what Luger talked about. Bluebeard Count Le, who he said was one of the Demon King’s fragments. Is that monster—or whatever it is—a monster?”

“Ah, right. I haven’t heard much about it. There’s nothing on the forums, and it’s quiet in Middle Earth… Hyung, you’ve seen the community. No one really cares. Some people who heard Luger tried to make it an issue, but everyone’s just concerned about their contributions. Who really cares about Middle Earth’s storyline? I saw a few comments saying it’s just something made up to wrap up the war.”

Kijung conveyed everything he had seen and heard to Leeha.

The truce agreement and the upcoming peace treaty were not of much interest to the general users. What mattered more than the sudden end of the war was the impact on them.

“Hmm… What about Kuzgunak’sh, that red dragon?”

“That’s something the Gold Dragon only told a select few. How would there be any rumors? Of course, there’s no news. Hyung, you’re too serious about this. You need to relax!”

“Haha, hey! Preparing during times like this is crucial. This is what the downtime is for. Don’t you remember getting Masstah before intense training?”

Kijung, who was all excited, seemed like he was about to dance, but Leeha laughed and stopped him. There was a faint but persistent feeling that Middle Earth wouldn’t stay this quiet for long.

“Anyway, listen to my story. First, it’s about the plus and minus contribution rewards.”

“Alright, alright. Go ahead. If you don’t finish, I’ll hit you.”

“Ha ha, as if you would!!”

Leeha’s joke excited Kijung, who continued explaining.

According to Middle Earth’s official reward announcement, the plus contribution points could be exchanged for items or stat points depending on the contribution score.

However, items of rare grade or above required a substantial amount of contribution points, making them difficult to acquire.

There was no need to mention the stats. Middle Earth wouldn’t hand out the most important points for just 100 or 200 contribution points.

“Hmm, what about hero grade or legendary grade?”

“I don’t know. Someone mentioned spending all their contribution points just to get a rare-grade helmet, which cost 1,000 contribution points. Since the points for special grade and rare grade differ by more than three times, it must get worse as you go higher.”

“Even so, a rare grade item would easily exceed 200 gold, right? They must have made some money.”

“Apparently, they spent around 150 gold on potions and buff scrolls just to avoid dying and losing contribution during the war. Even considering that they were complaining, they didn’t seem to profit much. They probably came out with a little bit of profit at most.”

“As expected of Middle Earth.”

“Yes. But those with plus contribution points are the happier ones.”

When Leeha nodded in agreement, Kijung continued speaking. For minus contribution points, there truly was a penalty, as the rumors stated.

It was an experience penalty that could only be removed by sacrificing connection time!

“Won’t it decrease if you don’t log in?”

“No. You must be logged in. Any town would be crowded for a while.”

Rather than going hunting with a penalty, many players preferred to chat in towns. Kijung’s prediction was quite accurate, and Leeha speculated on the purpose behind such penalties.

‘Is this also a way to weaken the players’ power? If the purpose of the war was an event to diminish players’ strength before the third Great War, then…’

However, the experience penalty could be reduced by paying money.

But since Middle Earth’s gold was practically equivalent to a cyber currency, Leeha thought that only players with considerable financial flexibility would be affected.

“There will be significant backlash. Who would pay money to remove it?”

“You still don’t understand Middle Earth players, do you, hyung?”

And the determination of Middle Earth players was much stronger than Leeha anticipated.

“Huh?”

“Despite the backlash, the value of Middle Earth’s gold has risen. Due to people wanting to pay off the penalty with money, the demand for gold suddenly skyrocketed. Even though many people are trying to remove the penalty with money, towns are still overflowing with people. Since it’s nearly impossible to recover from a minus contribution point status after dying even once during the war, there must be a large number of affected players.”

Seeing Leeha’s bewildered expression, Kijung subtly hinted that he had already sold some of his gold.

“What are you planning to do now, hyung? The war is over.”

“Well, I thought about collecting my rewards first, but…. I heard they’re organizing a reward ceremony at the royal palace in a week.”

“Yes. That’s why I haven’t used my contribution points yet. I’m waiting to see what they give out before exchanging them for stats or items.”

Those with few contribution points exchanged their points immediately and went back to hunting, but Kijung was different.

Leeha also shared the same thought.

The royal palace might give out better items, so there was no need to use the points to exchange for items now. He could decide based on the situation then, and there wasn’t much else to do at the moment.

The first priority was hunting.

Despite his considerable efforts in the battlefield, Leeha’s level hadn’t increased. This was because he focused on assassinating key figures rather than killing many characters.

Eventually, he concentrated on destroying keystones, so it was to be expected.

Leeha opened his character window.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Class: Musketeer / Level: 162 (99.7%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 94

HP: 4,420(3,094) / MP: 1,160

Stats:

Strength 280(+195),

agility 2,031(+817),

intelligence 148(+97),

stamina 145(+52),

mind 40(+30)

Remaining Stat Points: 51

Looking at the 99% experience, Leeha felt fortunate yet slightly perplexed at the same time.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 283

				
“Uh?”

“What?”

“Wow, look at me. I haven’t even allocated my stat points.”

“Hyung… You really are a citizen of Fibiel, aren’t you? How could you be so caught up in the war that you forgot to allocate your stats?”

Feeling embarrassed while looking at Kijung’s exasperated expression, Leeha scratched his head.

“Well, I was just negotiating a ceasefire with Kraven— It was that time, so I couldn’t help it— Ah, right.”

Hadn’t he been running around like crazy?

Leeha had just received the signal that Alexander appeared, so he had no time to spare. As he invested his stat points, earned from achieving the “Recognized by the Son of the Sea God,” into agility, another thought popped into his mind.

“What’s this, a blanket?”

Kijung asked as he watched Leeha rummage through his bag.

Taking the item out, Leeha shook it out and said, “No, it’s a coat. Drake gave it to me.”

“Huh? What did you say?”

“Kraven’s Drake? That NPC Supreme Commander? The strongest of the seas?”

“Yeah. He gave it to me while signing the ceasefire agreement, but I was so busy that I just stuffed it into my bag.”

“You stuffed the armor Drake gave you into your bag? Hyung?!”

Leeha felt embarrassed again as Kijung gave him a look of disbelief.

“Well, I was that busy…”

“To think you ranked number one in contribution. You must have been running around the battlefield like crazy. Anyway, what are the options on that thing?”

Kijung nodded vigorously.

Leeha briefly thought about how to get back at his annoying cousin who was always teasing him.


“Curious?”

“Of course! If a top-grade NPC gave it to you, it must be at least rare level? No, considering his fame, it wouldn’t be surprising if it was a heroic level! Show me already—”

“If you’re curious, then tank for me.”

“What kind of deal is that?”

“Where can I find Level 190+ monsters? Can you survive a few hits from them?”

It was a perfect opportunity. Although he could get information from Zhu from the Intelligence Guild, it would be more efficient to use Kijung since he was already here.

Listening to Leeha’s explanation, Kijung just stood there with his mouth open, staring at his cousin. He had just wanted to ask about the item, but now, he was completely dragged in.

 

* * *

 

“Oh, so we come to these hunting grounds around Level 200? The atmosphere is pretty intense.”

A chilly wind grazed Leeha’s face.

Kijung had chosen a hunting ground that best matched Leeha’s criteria. There were no monsters around, just Leeha.

–Hyung! What are you doing? Ready yet– Oh, it’s here!

“Ah, indeed, the scenery in Middle Earth is worth admiring. Well then, shall we get ready?”

Leeha took out the Black Bass and slowly unfolded the bipod. Despite the urgent cries echoing in his head, he acted completely indifferent.

Squinting towards the barely visible distance, Leeha lay down. He opened the scope cap and first identified the general location with a low magnification. Far away, he saw a person raising a shield, and in front of that person stood a Three-Handed Ogre.

Generally, they were Level 195+, and the one Kijung was facing was roughly Level 200.

–Hyung! Hyung!! Quickly— Oh, oh— Ugh—! Hyung, you’re ready, right? You’re going to shoot now, right?

–Oh, Kijung. With the location here, but your voice directly in my head, it’s like being at a drive-in theater. Ever been to a drive-in?


–Don’t talk nonsense! Hyung! Hurry up! I can’t hold on much longer!

What Leeha had in mind was the quest for the Black Bass.

They had to deal with a level 190+ monster from a distance of 2,000 meters with a single blow.

Given the condition of “a single blow,” it meant they couldn’t deliver damage twice, nor could anyone other than Leeha inflict the damage.

In other words, Kijung was now meant to defend against the three-armed ogre’s attacks unilaterally.

“You brat, you need to suffer a bit to learn how to treat your hyung with respect.”

Leeha had no intention of shooting quickly.

Just because Kijung didn’t know much about Middle Earth, did he think so little of his hyung?

Of course, it didn’t mean Leeha would just sit back and watch until Kijung died. Tirik― Tirik― Tirik― Adjusting the scope clicks, Leeha observed Kijung.

A blue light flashed from his body.

“Hah, hah, hyung! Please! Shoot! I’ve already used my skill! Even though my level is higher than this Three-Handed Ogre, its attack power is higher than the same level!”

One of Leeha’s requirements was that “the monster should be large.”

Although the level was 200, about 15 levels lower than Kijung’s, the monster’s attack power was equivalent to level 210 or higher due to its size. Without a healer, it was quite a challenge for Kijung to tank alone.

Three arms holding massive clubs swung alternately.

Although no sounds were heard outside of Kijung’s whisper, each time Kijung raised his shield, it felt to Leeha like he heard thuds― thud― thud― echo in his head.

“Hyung, I’m serious! I’m dying for real, hyung!”

Kijung’s words were starting to get tangled up.

Even the guild master of the elite Star Guild, known for excellent evasion and tanking, couldn’t help but suffer against a relentless barrage without counter skills.

“You gonna stop acting tough or what.”

“Huh, huh?”


“Will you stop fooling around or not?”

“Hyung? Now is not the time for…”

“Ssshh, are you gonna stop or not?”

Leeha chuckled quietly to himself as he watched the exchange between Kijung and the Three-Handed Ogre. The muttering, or sobbing sound, that was hard to categorize, momentarily filled his mind.

Immediately after, Kijung declared his surrender.

“I’m sorry, hyung! I’ll stop messing around, so please deal with this thing! Quickly!”

“You sure about that?”

“Of course I’m sure!”

“‘You sure about that?’”

“Yes, absolutely, hyung! Shoot already! I’ve already lost 1/5 of my HP!”

“Wow, he’s doing better than I thought.”

Despite Kijung’s desperate cries, he indeed possessed quite the skill of a dongsaeng ranker.

In Middle Earth, where a five-person party was the norm for tackling same-level monsters, Kijung was solo-tanking a near-equal-level monster for a long duration, with only 20% HP lost.

“At least he’ll listen to me for a while. Hm.”

Leeha took a deep breath, albeit jokingly. Ultimately, Kijung was indirectly helping Leeha.

They were close cousins who understood each other’s minds and pranks.

“Distance 2,000… 2,045 meters. Wind direction east, wind speed 4 m/s, stabilized.”

The Three-Handed Ogre’s right arm, left arm, and middle arm alternately reached towards Kijung.

Leeha hadn’t just been watching Kijung struggle. He needed to understand the attack patterns and movements of the Three-Handed Ogre.

“From now on, it’s a place I’ve never been; an uncharted territory.”

A 2,000-meter sniper shot had never been attempted in Middle Earth or reality. Yet, thus far, it was no different. Leeha had a certain degree of confidence going into it.

The fight at Dique Seas with Kraven and the 1,800-meter shots he had landed on Alexander had developed Leeha’s skills considerably.

A virtual sound echoed in Leeha’s mind.

Thud― thud― right when the Three-Handed Ogre’s middle arm was about to move.

“Calm mind.”

Boom—!

The bullet flew, slicing through the wind. The Three-Handed Ogre struck Kijung’s shield with its middle arm, creating a brief delay.

Leeha had carefully calculated the timing between the bullet’s arrival and the Three-Handed Ogre’s delayed action after hitting the shield. His shot was impeccable.

Kijung lowered his shield and waved both arms towards Leeha. With the signal from his cousin, a fanfare echoed in Leeha’s mind.

Ba-bam—!

 

* * *

You have leveled up.

〈Achievement: Silent Sniper (B)〉

Congratulations!

You have hit a target over a range of 2,000 meters! You must have felt it when you fired? There will be a delay of about 3.4 seconds before the sound is heard, so very few in Middle Earth will notice you. However, beware of those ‘exceptions’ among humans and non-humans. Middle Earth desires the power you possess.

Reward: Agility +13

You are the first registrant of the 〈Silent Sniper〉 achievement.

Up to the third registrant will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and there will be a 200% additional effect on the existing effect.

Effect: Agility +26

[Black Bass’s Seal—3]

You have completed the quest.

You have learned the skill—Mana Vaporizing Shot.

[Black Bass’s Seal—4]

A new quest has been generated.

“Oh? Oh!”

While leveling up, he had aimed for the Black Bass quest, but an unexpected achievement caught Leeha’s eye. Achievements based on distance that had vanished after 400 meters. Black Bass had transformed into a modern sniper rifle with nothing significant appearing at 1,000m and 1,500m, so he had thought they were gone…

“2,000m… I see. The achievements that started from 100m with a musket begin from 2,000m with a sniper rifle.”

Despite the praise it received, the achievement was only B-grade.

Leeha clearly felt there were more distances up ahead, though he could not determine the specific meters.

―Hyung, is it over?

―Yeah. You have leveled up complete. I’ve reached 163.

―Good, good! Hehe, come quick and get the items, I’ll keep watch.

Leeha tidied up his position and invested 5 stat points into agility before heading towards Kijung. First, he had to check the skills and the Black Bass quest.

“How long has it been since I learned a new skill? No matter how broken my weapon might be, compared to Luger or Kidd, I have almost nothing. I wish I could learn something like Bulletstorm!”

If others heard him, they might say they would trade all their skills for his weapon, given how overpowered Black Bass was. Still, personal desires couldn’t be ignored.

Leeha chuckled and opened the detailed skill window.

〈Mana Vaporizing Shot〉

Description: A seasoned predator even suppresses its prey’s struggles. The prey, clueless, cannot resist or escape.

Effect: All new mana within a 30m radius from the impact point is frozen.

(Existing skills are maintained, new skills cannot be cast)

Mana: 200

Duration: 10 minutes after impact

Cooldown: 1 hour

“Huh…? Uh-huh?”

New mana freeze? It meant that while existing spells were maintained, new ones couldn’t be cast.

‘Dispel cancels even the skills that were already cast. Ah, if only it was that strong, it would be amazing!’

Knowing the might of the Gold Dragon Bailephus, Leeha understood this. When the dragon glared and snorted, all the incoming spells simply vanished.

Even if it wasn’t as strong as a gold dragon, having Biyemi’s skill would have been excellent. Hadn’t even the flying mage fallen when the Fly spell was canceled?

‘It’s fortunate that it is an area spell. Moreover, a 30m radius from the impact point is quite wide….’

Though it wasn’t as strong as Dispel, the ‘generous cooldown’ and ‘generous effect radius’ of this skill were a small consolation.
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『Black Bass’ Seal-4』

Description: “This guy is alive, the more it tastes blood, the more it awakens.. The legendary dwarf placed seven seals on the Black Bass…. On the day the right user appears, black Bass will awaken……. The legendary rifle is waiting for a user to wake it up.

Content: Defeat a monster at level 210 or higher at a distance of 2,500m(0/1)(0/1)

Reward: ???

‘I expected it, but it’s absurd.’

Aiming points start to change from 2,000m away. 2,500m would be beyond Black Bass’ effective range. It meant that one could only hit if one used the snipe skill to increase range.

‘Damn it, it’s that far, but-’

-Hyung, what are you doing? Quick!

-Ah, Kijung-ah. Wait a minute.

From the next 3,000 meters, it will be a painful situation. Leeha shook off his dizzying thoughts and put the Black Bass away. Then adjusted the scope’s clicks.

Click- click- click-.

His distance from Kijung was already within 1,000m. It wasn’t much of a problem.

-What are you doing?

-When I give you a signal, try using a skill.

-Skill? What skill?

-Well. Anything. Are you ready?

-Now, wait a minute, what are you going to-

‘Mana Freezing Bullet.’

Leeha felt the familiar feeling of mana draining from his body, but there was no significant change to Black Bass. Leeha pulled the trigger without needing to adjust his breathing.


Baaaaaang–!

After a second or so, a bullet struck near Kijung’s feet.

Since he hadn’t fired it while lying down, the bullet was fired at an angle and pierced the ground. The moment the bullet was completely buried, a blue wave spread around.

-Uwaaaa?! What are you doing, hyung!!!

-Use your skill.

-I was surprised!

-Use a skill quickly.

Leeha looked at Kijung with the scope. He lifted his head and made some action by himself, but no light leaked from Kijung’s body.

-What? Oh? I can’t use my skills? -Haha, didn’t a notification window pop up? -It… did not. What did you do, hyung?

‘That’s what it meant.’

One should not miss even a single word in Middle Earth.

Leeha got the sense of what ‘the prey would not even know~’ meant that was in the skill description.

It meant that while normal status abnormalities showed the caster’s name and effect, his skill did not show any notification.

‘I don’t need to be disappointed that it isn’t a dispel grade, do I?’

It was much better! At least, it was a skill that was perfect for Leeha! What could be a better skill than this for a sniper that did not want to reveal himself?

『Black Bass』 was indeed a weapon specialized for 『Accuracy』.

Leeha shouted as he approached Kijung, who was bewildered.

“What skill did you try to use? I was just messing with you. Let’s go!”

“Lies! What did you do? What skill did you learn?! What? What?”

“Don’t you want to go back to the capital and check the coat?”


“Ah, the coat! That’s right. Hehe, let’s go, hyung-nim.”

After looting the 『Three-Handed Ogre’s Special Club』, Leeha returned to Aelstock with Kijung. As soon as they landed in the noisy capital, what greeted them was a new quest notification window.

『The Path of Growth quest has been completed.』

『The Call of Browless quest has been created.』

The Path of Growth was a quest given by Browless. That very quest said that he would call again when Leeha had developed his strength.

‘I thought it meant releasing all of Black Bass’ seals. Well, I guess it means I don’t have to. No matter what I do in the current situation, I won’t be able to hit a target from 3,500m distance.’

In other words, it meant that the quest wasn’t related to the 7th seal in the first place. The Black Bass’ quest was completed, but there was only one thing that changed.

‘Achievements. It means that the class would be recognized differently starting from 2,000m. The timing of matching this may be proof that I have grown significantly different from before.’

Strictly speaking, it must have meant that it was because 2,000m exceeded the effective firing range of the Black Bass.

“Why, hyung?”

“N-nothing.”

Kijung and Leeha headed to an alley with a few people in the capital.

If they took out the item openly, they would only get glares from the people around them. There were many people who recognized the guild master of Byulcho, but few people could immediately recognize Leeha’s face.

‘Even if they know my name, it is hard to recognize my face right away. My face wasn’t even properly filmed in the video.’

He rather liked it. It wasn’t until after heading to a corner alley enough that Leeha took out the coat and lifted it.

“Wow. The color is different. Hurry! Hurry up and share the details!”

“Kek, okay. Wait.”

It was the first time Leeha looked closely as well. Just by looking, the coat had an overall dark blue color with gold highlights that showed off its beauty. Leeha shared the item information with Kijung.

『Heroic Coat with the Sea God’s Protection』

Defense: 3,500


Effect: Water and Ice Resistance+60%, constitution +15, mind +5 Requirement: Achievement 『Recognized by the Son of the Sea God』

Description: A coat with the protection of the Sea God. The energy of the unfrozen sea is transferred intact. When it laughs, the sea is more peaceful than land, but when it is angry, all the seas will rise. Additional Effect: Able to use the Skill – Perfect Storm(Limited range)

“Wow, heroic, and +3,500 on defense? What is this! I-Isn’t it made of leather?

No, cloth? What kind of defense…… and options as well……”

Kijung could not hide the absurdity he felt.

Of course, it had lower defense than the full plate armor he was wearing, but it was close to it. Actually, that alone made no sense.

If one looked at the armor based on the job, the total defense of ranged and magic dealers cannot reach that high!

What was more ridiculous was that the owner of the coat Leeha had already achieved that.

No, strictly speaking, he did not become the ‘owner’.

‘Lending?! Damn it! Do I have to return this? Wah, I’m certain Drake said ‘I will leave it to you’ back then……

Is it possible to never return it? The options of the item was so good that it was the first thing that came to Leeha’s mind.

There was an increase in HP and MP because of Constitution + 15, and Mind +5, but what about resistance? Considering its tremendous defense, normal water or ice attribute magic would not inflict any damage to Leeha.

‘The energy of the unfrozen sea. Indeed. Is that why the ice attribute was also added?’

Leeha suddenly recalled the story of Ram Hwajung freezing the sea. For a moment, Leeha admired her magical powers, which could freeze even things with tremendous resistance due to the setting of Middle Earth.

“Hyung, isn’t it great? Why are you saying that?”

“He gave it to me while saying, ‘I will lend it to you for a while’. Fortunately, I can wear it because I fulfill the requirement…”

“Let’s keep it, hyung! Is there any way we can keep it?”

Seeing Kijung’s eyes shine brightly, Leeha couldn’t help but laugh. They really were similar.

“Let’s think about it a little more. Anyway, it’s good, right?”

“Good?! You know as well Aren’t users at a tolerable level unable to deal any damage at all? Even skills in their 120s and 130s if they carefully cast will only deal a little bit of damage!”

Seeing Kijung’s excessive reaction, ha-ha felt satisfied.

It just seemed somewhat low because Black Bass had unimaginable attack power.

The attack power of the “Hummingbird” that Leeha previously used was 4,760. It meant that if he wore the coat and equip a few armors, he would be able to deflect the hummingbird’s attack.

It was at that time that Kijung’s expression, which had been shining at Leeha like a puppy waiting for a toy, suddenly changed.

“Why?”

“…I got a call from Tale-hyungnim.”

“Is it guild related? What’s up?”

“Nothing, it’s just that. A guest had arrived. Hyung, I should go and look.”

Kijung’s expression hardened. He hadn’t even looked at the skill’s description attached to the coat yet, but Kijung said that it wasn’t an ordinary guest.

“Oh, okay.”

“Sorry hyung, you should show me the coat’s skill later! I’ll go now, call me if anything happens!”

Kijung tore up a scroll in an instant. As he headed to the safe house, he could vaguely think of the person he would meet.

‘He appeared during the war…. maybe he came… it’s already in the past anyway, the circumstances of Byulcho. ***

Leeha decided to deal with his issues first.

“Let’s look at the skill later~ I’ll go and say hello to the Headmaster first.”

 Leeha moved to the academy to work on the suddenly completed Browless-related quest.

Bang- Baang-!

The sound of musket fire could be heard from the vicinity of Brown Bess Academy.

It was not possible to attack recklessly in Fibiel’s capital, meaning it was a sound coming from inside the academy.

‘The number of pitiful people have increased again-”

They must have been new users dreaming of becoming a musketeer after watching Leeha’s performance. Hearing the continuous gunfire, Leeha shook his head and entered the academy.

“Director, are you there?”

Kijung once said

The number of users and the development of the academy are proportional.

There were no more creaking, wooden hallways or dark passageways. Brown Bess Academy was already very different from the past, with subtle decorations hanging on the walls and even lighting emitted from the constant light magic.

“Waa……. All of this-”

“Thanks to your performance. His Majesty gave a lot of support for the development of the academy.”

Browless appeared Leeha with a fr, who was surprised and was looking around the academy’. His expression had brightened a lot.

“I-Is that so?”

“I never thought the rookie who wanted to take a test would grow so much. I enjoyed listening to your performance in this war as if it was mine. Well done.”

Seeing him with a proud expression Leeha felt somewhat emotional. Compared to the dark and stiff look and barbed tone when they first met, how should Leeha accept the compliment?

“It was nothing. It’s all thanks to the director’s excellent guidance.”

Leeha humbly took off his hat and lowered his head. Browless also took off his had and greeted Leeha. It was only after the unfamiliar greetings were over that Leeha was able to digest Browless’ words. Whose activity did he just say?

“But didn’t you say ‘you guys’?”

Creeeak-.

The door to the director’s office open when Leeha asked. Only a few people could be in the director’s office when he is in the hallway. However, the person who came out was someone who was able to.

No, it was ‘people’.

“Aren’t you pretending to do all of it by yourself?”

“K-Kidd? Why are you-”

“You’re good at running, 『Bullseye』.”

“Wow, even Luger?”

Leeha had the urge to take out Black Bass at that moment, but he held it in. He already had a relatively good(?) relationship with Kidd, and wasn’t it the capital? Moreover, he judged that Luger would not attack in the presence of a teacher-level NPC called Browless.

Browless, who briefly approached Leeha, wrapped his hands around his shoulder.

“Right. You, the Three Musketeers, who succeeded our Three Musketeers. That’s why I have called you here today. Come in.”

They were the first Three Musketeers in the history of the Musket Academy.

Leeha suddenly thought that the quest was completed not because he had obtained the 2,000m achievement and unlocked the Black Bass.

『The quest ‘The Call of Browless’ has been completed.』

(To be continued…)
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“Now, sit down.”

Luger and Kidd moved frightened that Browless’ words would fall again. Three chairs were placed opposite the director’s desk, and two people sat at both ends. And there was only one empty seat left.

“Oh- I-I-”

“You have a seat too.”

“Yes…… director-nim.”

Leeha received a death glare from Luger while Kidd avoided his eyes.

In the end, the seat next to the German fighting maniac was occupied by Leeha.

Browless smiled happily at the three seated people and turned the blinds to darken the room a bit. As soon as at atmosphere calmed down, the calm smile on his face began to fade.

“I have called you today for only one reason. Leeha-kun must have already heard from Luger, right?”

“If… it is about Le, then yes. I already heard.”

That was the only topic of Leeha and Luger’s conversation. Browless nodded as he heard Leeha’s answer.

“Okay. It isn’t usually a big deal that one of the Demon King’s Fragment, ‘Bluebeard’ Le, is alive and roaming the continent. Obviously… we thought he was dead.”

Browless bit his lip. Luger opened his mouth.

“He’s alive. I don’t need to tell you that the pope confirmed his mana. I even saw him myself.”

“I know, Luger-kun. It’s not that I don’t believe you. I was thinking about his tenacious vitality.”

Kidd’s brows furrowed as he listened to Browless and Luger’s conversation Leeha was surprised.

He’s still a instructor-type NPC, so is it okay to talk to him like that?

‘Come to think of it, Kidd really respects Browless……. In any case, the two cannot really stand each other.’

Browless pondered for a moment before opening his mouth again.


“I haven’t seen any special signs yet, but it isn’t just ‘Bluebeard’ that worries me. The Demon King’s Fragment are both individuals and connected. They are one and two, three and four beings. As you already know.”

“Yes, since it is said that they came from the demon king, they must have been one from the beginning.”

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger all heard it from the dark elves, so they already knew Browless nodded at Leeha’s answer.

“Okay. So if ‘Bluebeard’ woke up, I think the others might be hiding somewhere. Didn’t the Pope say anything about that, Luger-kung?”

“Nope. First of all, the only thing he said was that humans had to stop senselessly killing each other .”

“Are you going to tell that after the conclusion of the peace treaty? It might be too late then.

That’s why I called you guys first.”

When Browless finished speaking, a notification window with similar content appeared in front of the three of them.

『The Three Musketeers and the Three Musketeers』

Description: ‘If Bluebeard acts in earnest, the other fragment of the demon king will also react. However, it is dangerous to go after Bluebeard on your own. Most importantly, you might have to deal with the 『Arcane Sniper』. If 『Arcane Sniper』 comes out after rushing them…. It’s going to be a problem. So let’s look for other information. It might be difficult alone, but with the Three Musketeers, you can do it. Just like me, mr. Brown, and Ms. Elizabeth.’

Browless wanted to prevent the recurrence of human-demon war, but decided that with the current skills of the Three Musketeers, he could not make them directly go after the Fragments of the Demon King. If the Demon King’s Fragment start to move, their first action was to gather monsters.

Figure out the movement of ‘Crolang’, one of Bluebeard’s pillars during the second Human-Demon war.

Content: After forming a party, investigate Crolang, who reigns as the king of the northern troll, and his tribe(0%), or kill Crolang

Reward: Continental Reputation +100, 3 gold, title – Lookout

Condition for Failure: Getting into party aside from the Three Musketeers, death of at least one of the Three Musketeers

Penalty for failure: Fibiel National Contribution – 300, continental Reputation -200, achievement – The Beginning of the Fall

Additional Compensation: In the case of killing Crolang, one person gets 10 stat points

– Do you accept??

The three, including Leeha, quickly read the notification window.

‘So are we going to do a trial run?’


It looked like he intended to test the trio against a weaker(?) enemy before facing the 『Arcane Sniper』, who must have been Bluebeard or the renegades Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth.

‘The content is relatively simple, so the reward is simple. All you have to do is look. It’s not about killing people or stealing items. We literally have to look.’

Fame and gold no longer mattered.

The only thing that stood out was the title. But what did ‘lookout’ mean? Unlike overlapping achievements, only one title could be selected. At least when looking at the name, it didn’t seem to have much effect compared to the title ‘Fearless’.

‘Well, we have to clear it to know. I just need to wait a few hours or a few days before coming back’

The percentage behind it was also clearly understandable.

Similar to getting to 100% by keeping the corresonding point for a certain period of time in the high ground battles, they would reach 100% if they watched Crolang and his tribe for more than a certain amount of time.

“Do we just have to look?”

“Right. It will take a week to fully check their movements. Can you do it?”

It meant they will need a full week to reach 100%.

At first glance it was an incredibly easy test. Howeve, Leeha had no choice but to feel anxious while seeing the failure condition and the horrendous penalty for failure that followed.

“What happens if we fail?”

“Crolang will start rampaging in the north. That would speed up Bluebeard’s actions. If you think about it, you should never fail.”

That was the part that Leeha’s eyes were glued to.

‘Achievement – Beginning of the Fall’. Does it mean that the 3rd Human-Demon war will start immediately if they failed? Besides, why was it given as an achievement?

‘It could always be a penalty. Just as users with negative contributions received experience penalty in war…”

Like Leeha, Kidd also had doubts. But he focused on a different thing.

“What will happen if we kill Crolang?”

“Crolang is someone who showed his monstrous strength during the 2nd Human-Demon war. It’s on a different level from a monster like Hijuit-Ka. Those who can deal with Crolang will grow , but…… as a teacher, I don’t recommend it.”

“Does growth only apply to one person?”


“Probably.”

“Hmmm…”

Leeha listened to Kidd’s words about the additional compensation part.

If someone killed Crolang, they would get 10 stat points. In fact, it meant that it had the effect of leveling up twice.

However, it was only for 1 person.

‘In a 3-person joint quest, only one person would be rewarded?’

Then the feeling came. There was a condition to kill Crolang, but it was not a quest. It was even more certain when he tried to combine the hints that Middle Earth unknowingly gave.

‘The quest title was the Three Musketeers and the Three Musketeers. The intention should be to show the difference between the past and present Three Musketeers, and making them better. In other words, making the three of us work together. Not killing Crolang is a part of it too-’

Just quietly observing and returning. That’s probably why Browless talked like that. Leeha and Kidd’s eyes met. However, there wasn’t only two people doing the quest.

“I will go. If it’s a troll, I can catch 3,000 of them. I can do it alone.”

“Uh, ohh, wait! Wait, Luger!”

“Wait! We must party!”

“Shut up and follow me.”

Luger got up from his seat after pressing the accept button. Leeha and Kidd quickly pressed the accept and followed him.

“Please be careful, gentlemen. The trolls of the north will be a little different from the trolls of the Sentinel Mountains……”

Looking at the three people walking away, Browless put on an uneasy expression.

As soon as Luger left the academy, he rummaged through his bag. He took out a crystal ball. Leeha shouted loudly.

“Luger! Luger! Where are you going?”

“I told you to shut up and follow.”

“Hey- did you understand the contents of the quest properly? We have to party and finish it! Besides, we don’t even know where Crolang appears, but-”

“I know.”

Luger turned around and raised his weapon. It was in regular musket form that hadn’t transformed yet, but a deep blue light hung from the barrel.

“Don’t interfere and follow me quietly, Kidd. Let’s go and have a party.”

“Stop it, Luger. Ammunition needs to be replenished, and we also need to maintain our supplies.”

“I am ready. And you guys don’t even need to.”

“What do you-”

“I will catch everything on my own anyway. Follow me quietly and pick up the items. I will get the stat.”

Luger was already convinced.

Although he did not inflict any damage to Bluebeard, he had reached the mouth of the abyss.

He had a history of dealing with all types of huge monsters that came out on his own. Compared to them, the northern trolls were relatively low in difficulty.

However, that was only the idea of Luger, ‘an experienced person’.

I can’t go, I knew this would happen.”

“What?”

“Isn’t this completely stupid? Luger, don’t you know the purpose of this quest?”

Kidd wasn’t the only one angry at the blonde man’s abnormal words and actions. Leeha said with and angry face.

“Stupid..?”

“Yes, stupid. This is purely stage play. Click, click, click……. Is there only a straight line in this world? Use your brain, Luger-ssi.”

“……Do you want to give it a try, 『Bullseye』?”

He didn’t attack, but his meaning was clear. The blue musket Luger was holding had turned into a heavy gun barrel before they knew it.

He had used the 『Weapon Transformation』 skill.

Even after seeing that, Leeha did not back off.

“Do you want to shoot in the capital? Try it if you have the confidence to turn all the Sacred Knights into your enemies. And damn it, why do you call Kidd, Kidd-ssi and you call me 『Bullseye』? I have a name as well, don’t you know my name? Would you like a bullet in the head?”

Strength went into Leeha’s hand holding the 『Black Bass』.

Luger’s eyes shone, and quickly scanned Leeha’s hand.

It was somewhat predictable that the quest given in the sense of the Three Musketeers cooperation operation began as a confrontation between 『penetration』 and 『Bullseye』.

Everytime Luger’s shoulders twitched, Leeha’s arms wriggled as well.

He didn’t even use a skill. He didn’t even know if he was loaded. However, the two were already fighting.

It was an instense fight.

Even in the midst of that, Leeha was a little impressed. About the fact that Luger didn’t actually attack and didn’t say ‘Let’s go outside’.

There was a reason why Alexander, the first in the ranking and was a Dragon Knight, and Lee Jiwon the second in the ranking and a Magic Swordsman trembled at Luger. It was because he was a user who fully understood Middle Earth. 

‘Even if his words and actions are like that, he was able to adapt to Middle Earth. Since the Three Musketeers is a quest, even if only one died, the quest will fail. It means that he understood the quest just because Luger didn’t kill me…

If so, how would I defuse the situation? How should I deal with this guy who seems to be about to rush at me? While Leeha pondered, Kidd spoke first.

“You both should know. There are two ways to clear this quest, and you need to prepare for both to increase the chances of success. If Luger is trying to clear it by killing Crolang, wouldn’t it be easier if I take care of the surrounding mobs and Leeha takes care of the ranged targets?”

He was certainly someone who had dealt with Luger more than a few times.

Listening to Kidd’s logical and reasonable words, Luger’s hard expression relaxed a little.

“Okay. I don’t want to carry you guys for free. Prepare to be able to pay for the minimum meal.”

Luger’s commanding tone until the very end widened Leeha’s pupil again, but he immediately hid his expression. For now, it was necessary to maintain the atmosphere that Kidd had managed to hold on to.

“Phew……. Okay. Then, investigate what needs to be investigated, and prepare what needs to be prepared. We will meet here again in 2 hours. Call?”

At Leeha’s words, Kidd nodded but Luger did not reply.

The three began to prepare for the quest on their own.

“It’s been a long time since I met a guy who lived and scratched his temper like that. Isn’t that right, Kidd?”

“Hmmm..”

“W-why are you looking at me like that?”

As Leeha snorted while acting vigorously, Kidd looked at him with strange eyes.

Kidd had seen Leeha a few times before he had yet to get the achievement of the Three Musketeers, even in those days when he was fiddling with muskets. Therefore, he already had a first impression and preconceived notion of Leeha to some degree.

‘I thought he had a mild personality……. He’s wilder than he looks. He didn’t even get pushed by Luger.’

(To be continued…)
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A slightly clueless, yet amicably smiling personality.

Good at expressing genuine emotions and adept at scheming, though not to a degree that constitutes a grand strategy.

That’s how Kidd had perceived Leeha all this time. He had acknowledged Leeha’s capabilities but never considered him a user who would take charge proactively.

This perception was partly because Kidd mostly operated alongside Pei Wu during the national war. If Kidd had witnessed Leeha leading the reconnaissance from the Plains of March, such thoughts would have been shattered long ago.

“Luger is not unaware of Middle Earth.”

“Yes, I know that too. Despite being so vexing, he clearly understands the quest failure conditions… That makes him even more annoying! Ugh, that damned guy. Even if he knows a little about the northern trolls, krallang must clearly be a rare spawn boss mob, like Hejuit-Ka. Isn’t that right? What does he know?”

The kobold boss, hejuit-Ka, did not appear in normal situations. Specific conditions had to be met. Since the 2nd Human-Demon War, hejuit-Ka had been a regular action leader at level, so if it were already well-known by Krallang then?

It naturally would not be a regularly appearing monster.

Thus, it was a reasonable assumption that Luger might have encountered northern trolls but had no experience dealing with Krallang.

“Is he already preparing to strategize the quest while still speaking unpleasantly?”

“Uh, yes? No, we must be prepared. Even if we don’t capture it, if it appears, it certainly wouldn’t be an ordinary situation.”

Expressing annoyance about Luger with his mouth but entirely focused on the quest with his mind. Kidd smiled while looking at Leeha.

“Even so, isn’t it of no major issue?”

Luger, though quarrelsome, clearly understood Middle Earth.

While whispering behind backs, Leeha kept a cool head.

Kidd felt a sort of reassurance thinking, ‘At least if I’m with these two, I won’t be outdone.’

“Isn’t it an issue?”

“If Luger is that confident… If he could kill Krallang and complete the quest faster, wouldn’t that be better? In Middle Earth, time is money.”

“That’s true. It is, but hmm.”


Could that really happen? If Luger were a master at devising scenarios positively, Leeha was a champion at preparing for the worst-case scenarios thoroughly.

Various probabilities clashed in his mind.

“What would remain of that person if you removed his confidence? Let him think for himself, and we should prepare our own.”

“Granted, if you remove his confidence, he’s like a corpse.”

“There wouldn’t even be a corpse left.”

“What? Then?”

Kidd let out a small snort when Leeha looked at him with a puzzled expression.

“Only some pomade smeared on the head would remain.”

Wearing a peculiar smile, Leeha stared at Kidd for a long time, trying to decipher what he meant. Flustered by Leeha’s gaze, Kidd pretended to clear his throat and pulled his hat down low.

Finally, Leeha understood.

“Pfft, what is that? A joke? You were joking, huh? Trying to make me laugh?”

“Ahem, let’s meet later.”

“Ahaha, what did you say? Pomade? Puhuhu, pomaaade?”

Kidd took out a scroll. Even as he tore the paper, Leeha continued to tease him with his laugh.

“So, the ammo is still plentiful… I should list the ogre club in the auction and stop by the Holy Grill.”

After Kidd disappeared, Leeha moved too. Two hours passed quickly.

* * *

It seemed unclear whether Luger was unprepared or had already completed all preparations as he leaned against the Academy’s wall. When Leeha appeared, Luger only gave him a fleeting glance and continued munching on his apple.

“At times like this, one usually starts with ‘Have you prepared well?’ to engage in some human communication. Or perhaps ‘Would you like a bite of my apple?’ There are plenty of things to talk about, so why remain so silent?”

Despite Leeha playfully mocking with a slightly curled lip, Luger ignored him.


“Okay. There’s no need for such talk between us, right? If it weren’t for the quest, I wouldn’t want this either.”

But Leeha’s worries didn’t end there.

Quests like this might not come again. The difficulty of cooperative quests with the Three Musketeers might increase gradually.

“Damn, if he acts so uncooperatively then, it could be troublesome…”

Since they were grouped as a single entity known as the ‘Three Musketeers’ in Middle Earth, he thought it was necessary to sync their teamwork, despite his distaste, he wanted to approach first.

But if the other party wouldn’t come forward, Leeha had no desire to reach out first, either.

“Let’s go.”

Once Kidd arrived, Luger threw away the apple core and took out an orb.

“Follow me.”

There was no need for explanations on how to follow. Leeha and Kidd activated their skills to check the Chain Teleport state.

If it had been inactive, he might have thrown in a sharp comment, but Luger had already set it to active.

Shoo―!

Luger’s body disappeared, and Leeha and Kidd used the Chain Teleport: Three Musketeers skill.

Shoo, shoo―!

The verdant cityscape vanished instantly, replaced by a bare winter landscape.

“Wow… This is worse than what I’d heard.”

“Hmm, it’s chilly.”

A bitter wind welcomed all three of them in the grim scenario.

At the northernmost point outside the towns of Shazrashian Federation, Luger advanced first. He didn’t look back at Leeha and Kidd, nor did he tell them to follow.

“Damned guy, I hope he slips.”


“Good thing I brought this along.”

“Pfft, what’s that? A scarf? Gloves?”

Kidd pulled out a fox muffler from his bag and wrapped it around his neck. The sight of him, who usually walked around in a Western outlaw-like outfit, with such a suburban housewife item looked quite comical.

“Staying warm takes precedence. If we go further up here―”

“Yeah, yeah. I wasn’t just playing for those two hours.”

What Leeha pulled out was a pair of overshoes with small spikes attached to the underside.

Much like crampons for hiking boots. Gloves were there, too. Kidd nodded at the sight.

He’d already heard about the northern trolls from Ju of the Holy Grill. What was more terrifying than their might was the environment where they lived. She said enduring the physical changes brought by extreme cold would be challenging.

“Here, Kidd, one for you as well.”

“Did you prepare one for me too?”

“I did bring one for that guy, but I wasn’t planning on giving it to him ’cause I dislike him. Hehe, let’s go.”

“……―Thank you.”

“What?”

“No, let’s go quickly.”

Kidd tightened his coat and followed Luger, who was already far ahead. Leeha followed behind, sensing the sincerity in Kidd’s small words.

The next-generation Three Musketeers set off towards the northern troll village from the northernmost tip of the Shazrashian Federation.

They felt the frozen ground crunching beneath their feet.

* * *

The location Luger teleported to wasn’t even a village.

It was a place one must walk quite a distance to reach after leaving a village at the northernmost part of the Shazrashian Federation. Hence, the cold reached them sooner than what Ju had forewarned Leeha about.

It felt as if they weren’t making a stop via Moscow on their way to Siberia but were dropped right in the heart of the Siberian wilderness straight from Seoul.

“Phew… If I had raised my assimilation rate more, it would have been dreadful. I can feel the chill even at about 50% assimilation rate.”

It was clear why the chill felt despite the assimilation rate not being high. Hooo― a dense puff of mist burst forth like the steam rising from a dumpling shop with a breath.

Crunch, crunch, crack―, the sound of spikes breaking the thin layer of frost covering the hard land echoed as the three moved forward, with no conversation among them.

Even when Leeha tried to engage in some friendly chatter, it merely lingered in the air. Kidd, though occasionally replying, wasn’t much of a talker either, so the conversation would end quickly.

‘But how can this guy have such a place stored in his orb?’

That was the question the moment Luger brought up the northern trolls.

He claimed he knew the location.

‘According to Madam Ju, it’s like abandoned land. A place no giant draped in furry clothes would step foot, where crops can’t grow, and only beastly creatures roamed, feeding on raw meat and blood. When I asked if he wanted to go there to die— isn’t it obvious?’

Besides, what were those beasts?

Even without Ju’s warning, Leeha knew. Having experienced the snow mountain rabbits with giant Jin Gonggong, he knew monsters were larger in cold places. If trolls, originally a part of mid to large-sized creatures, lived here…

‘Maybe… storing places like this is actually quite understandable.’

His weapon made precision targeting difficult. The smaller and-nimbler the monster, the harder it was to hit.

Based on that, it was a reasonable guess that he sought out large monsters to hunt and this region was one of the places he frequently visited.

Crunch― crunch― crinkle―.

“Mm? Why did you stop―”

“Shh.”

Luger frowned as he turned around to look at Leeha. Seeing him crouching, Kidd followed suit and lowered his body.

‘The damned bastard, at least use a signal to stop. He’d be hit hard if he joined the army, not knowing the platoon signal system.’

Leeha, at the very back, also crouched down.

They weren’t walking on the ice like in the Arctic. A thin layer of ice covered the ground. Some snow hadn’t melted and collected here and there. Along the ridge were rocks and some plants adapted to the harsh cold.

Which meant there was plenty of terrain to hide. The three nestled in one of those rises, peeking out only with their eyes.

“A troll scout. We’re still quite far from the northern troll area…”

Luger’s ominous mumbling also tensed up Leeha and Kidd.

Luger’s expression differed markedly from usual. If even he, who frequented this place, sensed something amiss, it indeed mustn’t be an ordinary situation.

And given their quest content, if it wasn’t an ordinary situation, there’s only one thing to speculate.

“Bluebeard might have stopped by.”

“Perhaps right now, he’s in the northern troll area.”

Click, click―.

Suddenly startled by the sound coming from beside him, Leeha realized Luger was loading his gun.

“What are you planning?”

Leeha quickly tried to push down Luger’s barrel with his hand.

“Don’t interfere.”

Luger swept Leeha’s hand away— swapping cool words with the icy weather— standing upright. However, he couldn’t take another step. Leeha had grabbed the back of Luger’s clothes to stop him.

Hoooo…. Leeha let out a heavy breath. There’s no way they could go on like this.

“Answer me straight, Luger. Do we need to capture that to move north, or can we bypass it?”

In Leeha’s left hand, was a hummingbird-themed pistol. Glancing at it, Luger eventually turned to face Leeha.

In another moment of brewing tension, Kidd reached into his coat, readying himself.

* * *

Kidd had already set his revolver at the ready. 

With Rapidfire & Fanning, he was confident in resolving things in less than 0.3 seconds. Kidd was sure of himself. Even with these two as the opposition, his 『Rapidfire』 would definitely be effective.

But his current deliberation wasn’t about whether it would be effective or not. Could he strike their weapons to make them drop without harming them and without attracting the nearby troll scout’s attention? That thought stayed his hand.

‘Damn, why do I keep finding myself in these situations?’

Ultimately, the best course was to prevent such situations from escalating in the first place.

“The quest hasn’t even started yet.”

In other words, don’t waste your energy. Lowering his voice with his hand inside his coat, Kidd’s words broke the standoff between Leeha and Luger.

If Kidd too entered the fray with ‘action,’ there would be no one left to prevent chaos. If it escalates to that point, it’d be disaster. Luger, possibly aware of this, slowly spoke, breaking away from his standoff with Leeha.

“That one must be caught.”

“Why.”

Luger spoke briefly, and Leeha’s question was even briefer. Following that, Luger was silent for a while.

He was clearly showing that he didn’t like Leeha’s attitude, yet Leeha showed no intention of backing down either.

Ultimately, Luger spoke again.

“The scout circles until it finds its prey. I have never seen it come out to a distant place like this before. And I remember the position of sentinels in other areas, and even if gunfire were to occur here, it wouldn’t reach the northern troll area. Most importantly, if it detects us first, even your desired ‘sneakiness’ would be over. The entire northern troll territory would enter strict vigilance. Do you need more reasons?”

___

**New Elements and Characters:**

– 키드 = Kidd (he)

– 이하 = Leeha (he)

– 루거 = Luger (he)

– 페이우 = Pei Wu (he)

– 미들 어스 = Middle Earth (it)

– 북부 트롤 = Northern Trolls (they)

– 크롤랑 = Krallang (it)

– 히쥣-카 = Hejuit-Ka (it)

– 주 = Ju (she)

– 샤즈라시안 = Shazrashian (it)

– 성스러운 그릴 = Holy Grill (it)

– 삼총사 = Three Musketeers (they)

– 블루비드 = Bluebeard (he)
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Luger growled with an irritated tone. His words meant not to interfere if one didn’t know.

“Fine. Then we should catch them. Can you hit them from here?”

“Of course. But there’s no need to do it from here. Let’s step out—”

“You’re saying you can’t do it. Then shut up and sit down, or look around. We can’t be sure another scout didn’t come out just because we saw one. Or review the positions of the usual guards.”

Leeha interrupted Luger’s words as he stood up.

Luger flinched for a moment, but Leeha didn’t care. He took off his gloves, quickly pulled out his Black Bass, unfolded the bipod, and lay prone at the spot.

Luger, who seemed ready to say something, refrained from interrupting Leeha.

‘Ha― He acts high and mighty, but can’t even hit the target. This kind of job should be left to an expert.’

Though Luger had more extensive knowledge about northern trolls, Leeha felt secretly pleased, thinking he had outdone Luger.

‘The distance is about 800 meters. Luger should be able to hit it at this range.’

Leeha had experienced Luger’s weapon before.

Though he hadn’t witnessed it thoroughly nor paid attention to the bullet loading and firing process, he could guess just from its appearance.

Luger’s “Cobalt Blue Python,” similar to an anti-tank gun, could have a range of nearly 1 km, despite the hefty size of the bullet. This might be due to wanting to unleash maximum destructive power at a close range.

However, Leeha intentionally thought otherwise.

‘Probably lacks confidence in his aiming skills! He wouldn’t want to miss, especially with me and Kidd watching. Heh heh.’

In that sense, Leeha felt reassured.

The northern troll was as large as ogres from the Sentinel Mountains. At a distance of 800 meters, its head, arms, and legs were clearly discernible. The only difference from ordinary trolls was its blue skin.

‘Eagle’s Eye.’

Leeha didn’t even use a scope.


The distance seemed somewhat far for Eagle’s Eye, but it was sufficient. The click adjustments were quick, and Leeha’s aim was even quicker.

“Cover your ears.”

“Wha―”

BOOOOOM────!

As Leeha immediately pulled the trigger, Luger frowned and took a step back. Kidd was already covering his ears.

“Damn it―”

“Phew, headshot. Target down.”

Luger stopped as he approached Leeha.

“Did you hit it?”

“Can’t you see?”

Luger spent a moment observing the collapsed troll scout. His facial muscles momentarily twitched, but neither Leeha nor Kidd noticed.

Meanwhile, Leeha had already packed away his Black Bass. Though Luger excelled in information, he didn’t have much to say after witnessing Leeha’s skills.

“Let’s go.”

Luger took the lead again.

“You don’t need to say anything. We’re going, Kidd.”

Leeha followed after helping Kidd along. As Leeha nudged him forward, Kidd sighed quietly.

“For many reasons… this is the first quest that’s made my heart race like this.”

“All this is part of the fun, what’s bothering you. Oh, hey, Luger! I’m taking the loot! You discovered it, but I’m the one who took it down.”

Leeha spoke to Luger without much expectation. He anticipated another ‘shut up’ or ‘get lost’ or simply being ignored, but this time, Luger replied.

“I don’t need that stuff; do what you want.”


Although Luger’s response wasn’t pleasing to Leeha’s heart, nonetheless.

“Tch, could have just kept silent…”

Leeha pouted as he approached the fallen northern troll scout.

The enormous troll, pouring blood onto the frozen wasteland, its protruding tusks looking menacing, was looted, and the trio continued their journey.

* * *

After walking for another hour, Leeha realized they had arrived in the northern troll zone. It wasn’t because Luger had kindly informed them.

The first to react was Kidd, who was drinking a potion with a red aura.

“What are you drinking?”

“A potion to increase resistance against ice attributes. We need to drink it now.”

“Why?”

“… It doesn’t bother you?”

“What’s supposed to bother―”

Suddenly, a system message appeared in Leeha’s eyes.

The temperature has reached -20 degrees.

You resisted the status effect ‘Bitter Cold’.

The likelihood of contracting ‘Frostbite’ due to the cold has increased.

You resisted the status effect ‘Frostbite’.

“Oh? Status effects? No wonder it felt even colder.”

Even with a 50% assimilation rate, the chill now went beyond a slight shiver. Seeing Leeha’s reaction, Kidd offered him a potion.

“Drink it. The chance is low, but you never know. Once contracted, it lasts long and results in reduced movement speed, attack speed, accuracy, and prevents HP auto-recovery—it’s the worst—”


“No, I don’t need it. I resisted.”

“… Resist? How? Without a potion…”

If there was a silver lining, it was merely cold. Leeha grinned at Kidd, who was puzzled.

“It’s a secret.”

Leeha had heard from Ju about the extreme cold. He even took care to bring iron footwear similar to aizen. He had also been informed about the status effects, but no special preparations were necessary.

‘Indeed, an epic item has its perks.’

〈Hero’s Coat Blessed by the Sea God〉.

Leeha trusted the coat he received from Drake.

It provided a resistance of up to 60% against water and ice. As far as magic-based damage reduction was concerned, it was significant, and for status probabilities like magic, it greatly reduced the chance.

‘With a 30% probability and 60% resistance, the real chance drops to 18%. Since the probability wasn’t originally even 30%, it’s practically safe.’

Even if it were to occur, the resistance would weaken the effect significantly. While Leeha and Kidd chatted, Luger quickly gulped down a potion and tossed the empty bottle into the air.

Crash―!

The sound of breaking glass echoed.

“Luger! Are we entering now?”

“If you know, don’t ask.”

“Grr…”

Leeha donned his fur gloves again, following behind Luger. They were unaware that someone was watching the three of them enter the northern troll zone with eager eyes.

* * *

“The far north of Shazrashian… I wonder why they went to the northern troll zone?”

“I’m not sure.”

“Oops, I wasn’t asking you Sasuke, don’t worry.”

Chiyou smiled at Sasuke and refocused on the crystal ball.

The day when there was a temporary ceasefire agreement, Chiyou approached Leeha not just to exchange greetings after seeing his face. It wasn’t purely to satisfy her desire to see Ha Leeha in person.

‘I was worried Biyemi might notice, but thankfully he didn’t. The old assassin wouldn’t have known.’

She had already known from Midnight Circus that marking didn’t work, so she had approached in person to embed a tracking item that allowed her to see Leeha’s position and appearance.

“The duration is now down to two days?”

“Hah!”

“Hmm, it doesn’t seem like a quest that would end in a day or two… Just Ha Leeha alone would be of interest, but with Luger and Kidd also involved, it might be related to the Demon King’s Fragment—”

“I’ll go investigate.”

“No, no. We shouldn’t let them know we’re moving yet. Ha Leeha is unusually sharp. Among the people I’ve met recently, he’s the most suspicious… Surely he’ll sense my intentions.”

Chiyou trembled slightly.

Seeing her pleasure-filled expression, Sasuke blushed. The joy of controlling everything and the thrill of cunning battles with a recognizing opponent were what Chiyou loved the most. It was also one of her reasons for playing Middle Earth.

“In that case—”

“Hmm, they might not notice if it’s the Shazrashian Federation moving. Tell them to track Ha Leeha in exchange for compensation from their last failure. Promise them to void their ‘contracts’ if they provide good information.”

“But they might… opt for direct action rather than just gathering information, oka-san.”

“They’re not foolish enough to act with both Luger and Kidd there, even if it’s just Ha Leeha. If they are that reckless, we can only use them as carpet material, regardless of whether they get skinned or not. At that point, it would mean receiving major sponsorship from the Russians. Right?”

Once involved with her, there was no way out.

Sasuke displayed a face full of admiration at Chiyou’s words. From their perspective, there would be no loss in any case.

“Ha! I’ll move immediately.”

After saluting to Chiyou, Sasuke disappeared from his spot. Smiling at the space where he had vanished, Chiyou tucked the crystal ball into her bosom.

“Well, before they catch up, I need to manage my level too.”

She got up, trotting out of the room.

What seemed like a room was actually just one of the secret spaces. It was a massive tavern in Minis, owned by Chiyou personally.

“Hey, Chiyou! Come sit over here. I have some questions for you.”

“Oh aww, commander, I already told you during the war. You missed your chance.”

“That’s why, give me one more shot. You gotta provide the information so I can make something happen, right? Uh? Isn’t there anything else? Help me out here.”

Managing information and maintaining good relations with all NPCs.

It’s easier said than done. NPCs have both friendly and antagonistic relationships with each other. Balancing both sides and raising affinity with all NPCs is not something achieved with mere gift of the gab or effort.

“Okay. But you can’t tell the General Commander I did. I don’t think he likes me much.”

“Sure, sure he doesn’t! I’ll say I dug it up myself. And once Edwin acknowledges it, I’ll connect you directly with Baron Fondoo!”

When the division leader NPC became anxious and impatient, Chiyou covered her mouth with her sleeve. She had him.

Now, what Tale could shake the Kingdom of Minis? As Chiyou swiftly organized the information she gathered, she concocted a story. The way ‘Dancer’ accrued experience was very much akin to Middle Earth.

After dismissing all the other seats around the division leader NPCs, Chiyou finally opened her mouth slowly and in a low voice.

“There might have been a defense troop traitor who conspired with Fibiel during the Riverside Whitmore invasion. They say it’s the reason we were swiftly attacked during the last war…”

“Is that… true?”

In a hierarchical society, material evidence is unnecessary.

If there are a few circumstantial evidence and bits of information, lies can become the truth. When NPCs use those truths, and outcomes arise, Chiyou’s experience increases.

Chiyou’s calculations were already complete in her head.

The defense captain NPC from the plebeian tier would be executed, and this division leader would be recognized for his contributions in a matter of days—at most ten days, allowing her to boost her experience by 30% in one go.

* * *

“A lot.”

“It’s their village. Of course, there would be many.”

“No, no, that’s not what I mean. I’ve visited kobold settlements or orc villages a few times but this is on a different level.”

Leeha and Kidd hid themselves while observing the northern troll village, only showing their eyes. Luger proved he had the ability he was confident in.

From the entryway now showing status effects to the main settlement, he had successfully avoided all the scattered sentries.

‘I thought he’d charge right in upon seeing those guards, but he seems quite meticulous.’

Leeha glanced at Luger, who was silently observing the trolls alongside Kidd.

Even after taking down the scout, or back at the academy, where he’d acted like he’d immediately wipe them all out, Luger had been relatively calm since entering the northern troll zone and witnessing the village.

“Luger, aren’t there other sentries coming here? If we just hide out here for a week, does that mean the quest is complete?”

“It’s currently pattern 3.”

“Hmm, that means the sentry locations change with each pattern?”

“If you know, don’t ask.”

Luger didn’t spare a glance at Leeha. With a small grumble, Leeha commented softly.

“Kidd, you used to speak oddly too, but this is something else.”

“What?”

“Oh, nothing? I didn’t say anything?”

With Leeha’s joking, Kidd chuckled.

The trio once again spied on the northern troll zone, specifically the central northern troll village. Their large stature was expected, but their armament wasn’t ordinary either.

“Kobolds and orcs differ by occupation. Those monsters are weaker compared to others, compensating for their deficiencies through subdivisions in roles. But these ones…”

Trolls, equipped with crossbows.
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 It’s crude, but it was clearly a crossbow, and some even held shields as large as doors next to the ones holding crossbows. It meant that they were able to identify the weakness of a crossbow and supplement it.

‘Not only that, but they have different weapons and compared to the troll in the Sentinel Mountains carrying clubs, these trolls look like an army.’

There were no trolls that could be considered ‘workers’ like the kobolds and orcs.

They were not able to grow crops in the north and could only hunt, so they were even more ferocious and powerful. The northern trolls who were equipped with blunt weapons, shields, and spear knives suitable for their size, could be called a real monster army.

『Looking at the northern troll tribe.』

『Nothing suspicious so far.』

『Gathering information 0.6%』

‘0.6% every hour. If we do it 24 hours a day, 7 days a week.’

Leeha also considered Luger and Kidd in his calculations. They were not able to pick out anything out of place so the notification window did not show anything unusual.

“I think the seeker coming out earlier is just an unexpected situation.”

“It’s possible.”

Kidd agreed with Leeha’s statement. Additionally, Leeha thought that if nothing special happened for the time being, the three of them did not have to be there at the same time.

“I think it will only take a week like this. We should take turns surveilling and resting, so we should log out in order. Two people will do the surveillance, and one should rest.”

They should not use their stamina carelessly. Leeha always analyzed the quest first and engaged later. It was like that during the quest to protect the king, and it was the same during the natural war as well.

However, Luger did not react to Leeha’s suggestions.

“Johny Deaf-ssi? Can you hear me?”

“It’s more important to find Crolangs location.”

“Huh? No, thinking about catching Crolang first-”

“Catching Crolang will not be a problem. Don’t you think we need to know the location of the northern troll chief first so that we can prepare for emergencies?”

The reason why Leeha made such a suggestion was to keep Luger in one place as much as possible. He was worried that there would be a 100% chance of getting into an accident if he wandered around. However, there was truth in Luger’s words.


“Right. But do you know where it is? There are so many guards, so we can’t walk around the place.”

“How many times have I told you? I know the geography of this place.”

“Are you going to wander alone? What if you messed up while moving alone? Kidd and I would have to clean up your mess. Do you think we would let you go carelessly under such circumstances?”

“I said we need to find Crolang.”

“So-”

”

“No, Luger is right this time. Even if it’s not for the extra reward, it is important that we find out his location as a named monster in the 2nd Human-Demon war. I don’t think this quest will be completed by simply watching the trolls..”

Kidd defused the situation before the tension between Leeha and Luger escalated. Leeha was also aware of it. However, it was too risky to search different places.

How can they reduce the risk? A plan unfolded in the sniper’s head.

“Hmmmmm……. Damn it, it can’t be helped. I wanted to be as quiet as possible. Luger! Didn’t you say you are extremely familiar with the geography here? Where is the highest altitude?”

“What?”

“Where is the highest ground around here? After the three of us have a clear understanding of this village, you two will move. And I will monitor the trolls from above. As soon as we find Crolang, you should go to where I am. The Chain Teleport skill’s cooldown is 2 hours, so if we roughly search, the cooldown will eventually end.”

Even in an emergency situation, a contingency plan had to be prepared.

Extra skills, geographical advantage, and necessary information were put together in Leeha’s head and a strategy was devised in an instant.

Kidd’s eyes widened for a moment but soon spoke to Leeha with a teasing tone.

“Are you saying that you want to be the control tower?”

“If there is someone who can measure the distance and see farther than me, they can do it instead. That’s reasonable, right, Luger?”

“……Of course. Let’s try those unlucky eyes.”

Luger answered.

“What if you don’t believe me? Let’s be clear. Because we all have to prevent getting the “beginning of destruction.”


“Follow me.”

Luger ignored Leeha’s words and moved again.

They had to go a long way from where they were to the place where they could see the whole of the northern troll village. There was a terrain that can be called a mountain behind the village at least 1.5km away.

“Can you see it?”

Luger asked.

“Of course. But the outer part would be the limit. I am not going to infiltrate the village anyway, so I will be fine, but you have to be careful.”

Leeha opened the scope cap and took a quick look around the northern troll village. Fortunately, there were not many trees.

A few hedges and huts couldn’t hide the northern trolls, so he could see them all.

Leeha said, “Phew, it would be nice if the quest percentage went up here.”

Luger answered, “In Middle Earth? Ha, that would be absurd.”

“I know that as well. I was just saying. You don’t answer when you’re asked, but you do when someone is talking to themselves.”

Even as they opened the map and made a plan, Leeha, and Luger bickered. It didn’t take long to check and confirm the perimeter of the village, the elevation of the surrounding terrain, and the covers where they could hide. Not only that, but it was proof to Leehathat Luger and Kidd had done a lot of things before getting the Three Musketeers achievement.

“If anything happens, contact me right away. Don’t die. Even if only one of us dies, the quest will fail.”

Looking at the two people preparing to leave, Leeha asked for reassurance. Kidd opened his mouth as he loaded his revolver.

“Luger, are northern trolls strong?”

“If it’s Kidd’s bullet, it will sting by a bit.”

“That should be enough. Rather than us, Ha Leeha, you should be careful. Because it is common for people who look further away to not be able to see what is right next to them.”

“Heh, do you think I’m an idiot? Don’t you know how Rising Sun and I fought?”

When Leeha shrugged, Kidd made a pleased expression.

The first time Kidd saw Leeha was when he watched the video of Leeha’s fight against the Rising Sun. Didn’t Leeha have another weapon at that time?


“As expected……. Let’s go, Luger.”

“Don’t order me.”

Step- step- While the two of them walked toward the northern troll village, Leeha set up several claymores around him.

On the battlefield, snipers must learn how to protect themselves. It was exactly what Leeha believed. When the claymore installation was over, Kidd and Luger were already approaching the northern troll village.

***

Finding Crolang was harder than they expected.

-1 o’clock, 150m ahead, two trolls moving near the fence.

-We will hide.

– Okay.

Hearing Kidd’s whisper, Leeha moved his gun again. He had to watch both Kidd, who was going around the village to the left, and Luger, who was going to the left.

-11 o’clock, one- isn’t there a watchtower about 300m away? The visibility will be quite high, so be careful in advance.

-I know.

-Oh, is that so? There’s a meat-eating troll under the watchtower, so be careful with that too. I don’t know where it would move yet.

-……I get it.

Swoooosh—-!

The blizzard blew past Leeha once more. As expected, the abnormal status message popped up again, and this time he also succeeded in resisting.

‘It doesn’t go up either. I have been here for an hour and a half already. The information gathering rate doesn’t go up just by me watching from here.’

The quest had a distance limit.

It meant that Leeha’s eye using the scope was beyond the quest limit. It was only natural that no message would pop up since it had been less than 30 minutes since Kidd and Luger had arrived near the village.

– I could not confirm Crolang’s location, for now, there’s no troll with an unusual appearance. How about the two of you? What do you see?

After confirming that there was nothing special between the two of them, Leeha turned the scope once more and swept around the town. There was nothing in the village that looked large enough to support the trolls’ large bodies, no guardhouses, watchtowers, and not even a hut.

-They are just regular trolls. You could see them at first glance, but there is no clue about Crolang.

-I said I would tell you if I saw him.

Leeha suddenly realized how Bailephus could deal with Luger.

‘Gold dragons are wise after all.

I would only get tired if I react to every single thing he says. That’s why he ignored what Luger said and just talked about what was needed.’

There was a reason he ignored everything Luger said, whether asking for a fight or calling the gold dragon Bailephus a reptile.

After interacting with each other for a few hours, Leeha was able to adapt to Luger in less than a night.

‘The problem is Crolang. As expected, there must be a certain condition, like Hijuit-Ka. Should we just break in and kill every troll? Will he come out if we do that?’

Like in the kobold quest, should we capture and torture(?) them to gather information? Leeha was not sure. Compared to the kobolds, who were smaller than humans, the strength of a single troll is unmanageable. If they grab one and ask them, they wouldn’t be able to communicate, and it wasn’t easy to capture one alive.

‘Most importantly, that wasn’t the content of the quest. It is not about killing it, it’s watching, watching. In other words, it’s to observe…’

Leeha’s thoughts proceeded as expected, and continued observing.

Another 30 minutes passed as he gave proper instructions to Kidd and Luger, evaded the trolls, and looked around the village some more. A notification window appeared in front of the three of them.

『You have surveyed the northern troll tribe.』

『So far, you have not seen anything suspicious.』

『Information collection 1.2%』

‘Even if I’m alone here, I stay for a long time. Only one out of three? Maybe that means that only two or more people are needed for watching. Anyway, those two are good at hiding.’

The information they receive from Leeha will be useful in clearing the quest by achieving ‘100% Information Collection rate’. Of course, it was a story of when the three of them are thinking of the same thing.

-Meal distribution…… I heard something about the meal distribution time. Luger?

-I heard it too. It’s already 6 o’clock.

Suddenly, Kidd’s voice quickened.

-Meal distribution? What is it?

Leeha asked, but neither answered. After a while, Luger turned around and said to Leeha.

-Check thoroughly. All trolls will gather in 1 hour.

-It’s sounds like rationing. Okay, I have confirmed both your locations.

Even though they are equipped, it is not a civilized society.

In the troll society where everyone had to gather in one place for rations, Kidd and Luger crouched.

‘Was there that many? I don’t remember their number before, but there are more now? No, I think there are more trolls who went out in the first place!’

From where did they come from? All the trolls hiding over the hills, across the road, behind the trees, and in the valleys began to pop out. They held something in their hands, from beasts resembling polar bears to deer-like beasts with long fur.

Even the number at first, that was similar to an army, were just sentries protecting the village, and the hunters who accounted for a large part of the village were outside

-Stay still, don’t move. Kidd, there are 7 at 7 o’clock 40m away, and 13 at 11 o’clock 70m away.

,-The same with Luger! 15 at 1 o’clock 100m away- no, sixteen, and 8 more are approaching from beyond!

(To be continued…)
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Leeha’s heart started to pound.

They were not too far off from the entrance, as they were following the perimeter of the fence and peeked inside the village.

If things got really dangerous, they could use their chain teleport, but most importantly, their first priority was to not get killed. It was a situation where they hadn’t even gotten the information that they needed.

So, after a bit more suffocating time had passed. the number of trolls increased. By 6:50, there were well over a thousand trolls that had gathered in the middle of the northern troll village.

‘My goodness… It wasn’t something that they could infiltrate. We almost got in trouble.’

No matter how strong Luger was, with the number of trolls present, he was bound to run out of ammo. Although Leeha shook his head, he did not let go of his focus on the trolls. After 10 more minutes an hour had passed.

『You have surveyed the northern troll tribe.』

『So far, you have not seen anything suspicious.』

『Information gathered 1.8%』

– Are those all of the trolls? They are gathering all the meat they caught. I don’t see any special troll on this side. What about you?

 -…I don’t know. It only seems like the equipment is different, and nothing else really…’

-Crolang’s not here. Lets look elsewhere. All the trolls will be gathering soon, so let’s settle down and observe in advance.

Could it be that Luger suggested searching for Crolang considering the meal distribution time? Those who have experience with the northern trolls really are different.

‘It would have been nice if Luger said, “All the trolls are gathering soon, so let’s settle down and observe in advance.”, why did he have to withhold information?’

After about 10 to 20 minutes, Leeha shook his head as he watched the trolls huddle and interact over the scope. In any case, there was nothing wrong with Luger or Leeha’s words.

Leeha: Luger! When will the meal distribution be over? Are they going to leave again? Or do they not go out at night?

Luger: They do not go out at night.

Leeha: It seems like we won’t be able to find Crolang today, so check the patrol pattern again. We need to settle in a safe place and observe again tomorrow.

BAAAAAAAAAANG——!!!


It was at that time that a huge explosion was heard behind Leeha.

“Ugh, what was that!”

Leeha was startled and quickly looked behind.

A spark broke out 250m away from Leeha’s left and back, and smoke began to rise rapidly.

 One claymore was activated and created a large-scale explosion…

Kidd: What happened? I just heard a loud sound.

Luger: I see smoke there. What did you do? Do you want everyone to know where we are?

Leeha: A claymore explode-

But before Leeha could finish speaking.

BAAAAAANG—!!! Another explosion rang.

This time the explosion came his back right. It wasn’t a malfunction, there must have been a beast or a monster. He had just checked earlier and there was nothing around them.

Leeha was certain.

‘The distance between the claymores was 300m…… there’s something coming from both directions!’

Kidd: Ha Leeha? Ha Leeha?

Luger: Crazy bastard! All the trolls here are looking towards you like a beacon!

Leeha held his breath and pointed the Black Bass toward the explosion’s direction. He wanted to call Kidd and Luger right away, but couldn’t.

The smoke from the two explosions was very visible even in the northern troll colony.

『The northern trolls are curious.』

『Alert: 50%』

A rather cute notification window popped up. But Leeha recognized the group that appeared through the black smoke.


“Kuhahaha, how are you?”

“Igor……?”

Agromni Igor’s face was smeared with soot, and behind him were the soldiers who were in line together.

“Czar…. How?”

How did they know to come here? There was no way that users from the Shazrashian Federation would know everything. Most importantly, Leeha came here without passing through any village in the Shazrashian Federation. In other words, no one could have seen him, so how did they know? There was no way he was marked!

“Now I can finally get my achievement back. Capture him alive.”

“Yes sir!!!”

Igor and Czar were not the type of people to respond kindly when asked. Leeha was also not in a position to ask. Leeha immediately pulled the trigger. BAAAAANG—–!

“Hmmm?”

“Stupid…”

Even though they were far apart, Luger and Kidd heard it clearly, it was different from the previous explosions. It was unmistakeably a gunshot.

“Lurit – loud, ka – sound.”

“Human? Giant?”

“Atuk! Da! Meat! Meat!”

The northern trolls communicated with their tusks protruding. Still, only half of them went over. The other half of the trolls were more concerned about the food distribution.

Kidd: Ha Leeha, res『pnd, Ha Leeha! Luger: You damned bastard! You pretended to be proud, whats that idiot doing!?

Neither Kidd’s call nor Luger’s scolding got any reply from Leeha. Once again, a quiet gunshot came from above the mountain, where two smoke stacks rose together.

『The northern trolls are now paying attention.』

『Alert: 60%』

As it was 1.5km away, the sound was very faint. If they were in a city or battlefield, that level of sound would have been completely buried.


However, except for the strange noises the trolls made, whether it be sniffling or the gurgling of phlegm, it was a place without a single decibel of artificial sound.

Moreover, since it was an open area, the wind spread the smell of the gunpowder.

BAAANG, bANG, bANG, bANG-!

Gunshots were heard in quick succession.

『The northern trolls are on high alert.』 『Alert: 70%』

The trolls who were exchanging meat and dismantling the polar bears, started to focused more and more on one place. There were also some who grabbed their weapons.

“Aruk, aruk, human, there’s human.”

“Human meat, kuhut, human meat.”

As the northern trolls, who had been chewing a whole deer with bllood trickling down their mouth, laughed, Kidd and Luger’s expressions grew darker and darker.

Kidd: Luger, what is the status of his chain teleport?

Luger: It’s active. It’s already a situation where he could use it. Why isn’t that idiot using it?

Even so, the two couldn’t move quickly. The chain teleport was now. In other words, if Leeha made up his mind to run away, it meant that he could move next to Luger or Kidd.

However, why was he not moving?

Didn’t that mean that he had the confidence to handle the situation by himself?

The both of them thought so, and didn’t teleport to Leeha’s side. It would have been nice if Leeha responded, but since he did not, the frustrating situation continued.

Even so, in order to prepare for any emergency, both Kidd and Luger prepared their weapons. The sun had already set. At the time when the purple darkness was about to retreat from their sight, a sudden red-colored light exploded.

It wasn’t something superstitious.

It was obviously a skill effect. Both Kidd and Luger knew that Leeha had summoned his soulmate.

『The northern trolls have entered a state of emergency.』

『Alert: 90%』

Kidd: Ha Leeha, come here if it’s dangerous! Do not-

Luger: Hey you idiot!!!

Shwiiii- another gunshot was carried by the sound of the wind blowing.

『Alert: 100%』

“Chief, chief!”

“Our King!”

“Aru-! Aruhi aruru-!” Aruhi一! Aruru一!

Ruhi一! Ruru一!

Over one thousand northern trolls waited, screaming grotesquely. It was around that time that the gunshots stopped. Kidd and Luger’s eyes, which were looking in Leeha’s direction, followed the trolls’ eyes.

On the low hill beyond the village, something ran at breakneck speed.

It was the reason Kidd and Luger couldn’t find Crolang inside the village. Because the king of the northern trolls didn’t live in the village.

‘That is not a speed of a troll.’

『The king of the northern trolls, Krolang, has appeared.』

『All trolls in the northern troll village have now become 15% stronger.』

The northern trolls were bigger than normal trolls.

Moreover, crolang had a level that was worthy of a named monster. The field boss of the Sentinel Mountains, cyclops Quiquero, was about 10m tall, and Crolang was at that height as well.

His head was taller by a millimeter. It was because he was riding an mysterious beast as a mount.

“Churururup一……. Why did you wake me up when the count wasn’t here yet?”

Kidd and Luger heard Crolang’s creepy voice.

And at that moment, a light flashed next to Kidd.

Shuwaaa-…….

“Oh? Ha Leeha?”

“Kidd! Call Luger, quick! We have to catch Crolang, quickly! Come on!!”

“W-what?”

“There’s no time- no time! He appeared!” Casting chain teleport emitted an intense light. So Crolang and the northern trolls were able to see where they were now. Kidd and Luger had no idea what the hell was going on.

—————————————————————————————————————————-

『Northern trolls are alert.』

『Alert: 90%』

A bullet pierced the chest of a Czar guild member. Even though he was wearing chain mail, there was a huge hole connecting his chest and back. It was an instakill.

“Shut up.”

Igor gave instructions and distance himself from Leeha.

As soon as Leeha fired a bullet, he stepped back and pointed his rifle toward another Czar guild member that was approaching. And that Czar guild member quickly tore a piece of paper.

『User ‘Zatknis’ attacked you. A hostile relationship has formed.』

『The chaotic index will not increase when attacking a hostile user.』

『Your communication has been temporarily blocked.』

『All group chats including whispers are prohibited for 15 minutes while in range.』

BAAAANG——!

Cursing was a waste of time. After confirming that there was nothing above Zatknis’ neck, Leeha reloaded again.

Czar’s guild members tried to encircle Leeha within 200m. There were about 30 of them. Leeha had to choose quickly.

He could just jump off.

Overlooking the northern colony meant that he was near a cliff. What was his chance of survival? His legs would at least be broken. Most importantly, if he assumed that Czar was going after him, things would only get worse.

Another issue was the chain teleport.

He could go to Kidd or Luger’s location. However, what would happen after?

‘Light will spread. With an alert level of 90% has already been raised and then a light goes off…’

Leeha tried to refrain from provoking the northern trolls as much as possible.

They could go mad just by him using his skills. The failure of the quest will become ‘The Beginning of the Fall’. He couldn’t move carelessly.

(To be continued…)
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‘It would be nice if Kidd and Luger came to help me-’ They should’ve sensed that something was wrong. If even one of them came, against 30 people plus Igor, it wouldn’t be completely hopeless.

‘It’s not much different from Midnight Circus, even the average level of Czar, so if one of them comes and takes care of Igor, then I would be able to clean up the rest.’

He was confident in facing users around levels 150 to 160 because Leeha had already encountered users of the same level during the war.

However, no one came to Leeha. In the end, Leeha had to make a choice.

“Mana Freeze!”

He had to fight.

He had no other choice but to fight, waiting for either one to come. If he knew what Kidd and Luger were thinking, Leeha would have immediately used chain teleport right away.

Baaaaang—–!

Igor, who fell back, wasn’t important right now. The first thing he had to deal with was the Czar guild members. One shot was planted into the center of the encirclement that they had made.

“His shot failed! Catch him! Catch him now!”

“Group 1, move forward!”

“Group 2!”

“Weapon Break! ……Huh? S-Skills- skills are sealed! Skills are sealed!”

“What? Cruel Bash! ……I used it! I did not make a mistak- Keok!”

Ziiing Mana wrapped around his sword. Leeha turned the muzzle towards the light and fired. The skills of users near the center of the encirclement were sealed. However, users on the outskirts could still use their skills. Then it was clear who the first targets would be.

The Black Bass got loaded and fired. Reloaded and fired again. Remove the magazine, take out a new one, reload, and then fire.

“Tip!”

“Kuok!”

“Why are my skill-”


The absence of any notification window puts them into a state of temporary confusion.

They had to use capture skills, but which skills worked and which ones didn’t? Their comrade’s skills worked, but theirs didn’t?

Leeha did not miss the opportunity that came from the Czar guild’s confusion.

“His attack power is too high, shield, shield!- Keohok!”

The last time he had to deal with Czar guild was when the Black Bass was in ‘musket’ form.

Igor knew what kind of weapon Leeha was currently using and how destructive it was, but not all of Czar’s personnel knew that.

“Only use normal attacks! Don’t try to rely on skills!”

The warriors quickly adapted to the situation and moved again, but Leeha’s movements were difficult. When the distance was reduced and using the Black Bass became difficult, the pistols appeared. The Hummingbird and needle gun dug into the joints of the Czar users. Bang-! Bang-! Baaaaaang一!

『The northern trolls are on alert.』

『Alert: 70%』

‘It was just as Chiyou told me. The moment I can attack is short. He can kill me in one shot.’

Igor moved from left to right endlessly as he watched his allies being sacrificed. It was a move to make sure that he could not be targeted, and it meant that even the third-ranked giant acknowledged Leeha’s attack power and kept it in check.

The giant berserker’s eyes were focused on Leeha.

When Leeha fired another shot at a Czar user, the giant’s voice broke out.

“It’s time for him to change magazines, everyone rush in!!! Fury!”

Five shots.

He was able to figure out the number of shots in Leeha’s magazine with just one look. When Czar and Igor, who came to their senses, started to rush in, there was only one thing Leeha could do.

“Damn it, soul link!!!”

“Oh, what is this-”

Hwaaaaa一…….


A red light radiated explosively.

『The northern trolls have entered an emergency situation.』

『Alert: 90%』

Guoooohhhh——!

“Field Boss?”

“Kill them all, Kuma-ya!!”

It was enough to cause them to pause for a moment. And it was enough for him to change magazines even with his eyes closed. When he inserted the magazine and pulled the bolt, the feeling of the heavy bullet being loaded into the rifle was transmitted to his fingertips. There was no need to check. Leeha pulled the trigger at Igor. Igor directly looked into Leeha’s muzzle.

Baaaaaang—-!

At the end of the long gunshot, a harsh bursting sound was heard. Kaaaang. At the same time, sparks flew in front of Igor’s eyes.

Raising a sawblade-like sword, he blocked Leeha’s bullet.

It was an unbelievable reaction time, but it had a price. A huge crack appeared in the sword, which meant it had now become useless.

“Indeed…… Your attack power is high. This sword- Kyahahaha, now you will have to pay the price!”

『Alert: 100%』

“Haa, haa. Damn it, if I had known this would happen, I would have just used chain teleport-”

Eventually, the alarm reached 100%. Would things have been different if he had gone with Kidd or Luger from the start? They would have been caught anyway. Kidd, who was over level 180 would have done great against Czar’s personnel goons, but he would eventually hit his limit.

Igor confirmed Leeha’s location–

Clap, clap, clap.

It was then that applause was heard.

A third party broke into the place where Kuma and Czar were fiercely fighting, 1.5km away from the northern troll village.

『The king of the northern trolls, crolang, has appeared.』


『All trolls in the northern troll village become 15% stronger.』

At the same time, a notification window popped up in front of Leeha. Was the third party Crolang? He thought, but it couldn’t be.

“The behemoth has finally appeared.”

Czar’s attention was now focused on Krolang.

In the meantime, grrrrrrrr…. Kuma also looked toward the third party and growled as he stepped back. Even Igor jumped back.

He was quite far away from everyone because he appeared at the place where the claymore exploded, but his light steps were enough to intimidate anyone.

Those who didn’t actively participate in the national war were still not aware of why Fibiel and Minis had suddenly signed a peace treaty. Of course, the same goes for Igor and Czar.

However, Leeha, who was well aware of the situation, could only think of one name the moment he saw him.

“You…… is it possible……?”

It was a person with black energy emanating from his back. At least in terms of appearance, he was no different from a human, but Leeha could tell who he was.

He wore a neat black suit, carried a cane with a silver handle, and had a neat Bluebeard under his nose. The blue-colored beard was pretty impressive.

“I thought you were Crolang’s guests, but it doesn’t look like it.”

He walked slowly and lightly, it wasn’t threatening at all, but Igor stepped back.

“H-h-hit him. He’s dangerous!”

“What did you say, Igor?”

“Strike him! We need to kill him! Blood transformation to a werewolf! Now!”

Igor used his skill while stuttering. As the werewolf’s blood ran through his body, hair began to grow from his thighs.

Czar thought that he would attack.

“Eliminate that fellow. Quick.”

Quick!

Twelve of the 30 people were killed by Leeha.

The remaining 18 rushed at the suspicious man. Therefore, Czar did not see. That Igor, who transformed into a werewolf, turned around and quickly ran away.

“Oh dear. He’s pretty muscular, but he isn’t my type.”

Even though he only lifted his cane, Leeha could tell. He shouldn’t attack. There was only one thing he could do.

Leeha immediately used his Chain Teleport.

***

“What the hell happened-”

“Bluebeard Le! Count Le is here! As for whispers-”

Leeha frantically spoke to Kidd and Luger.

-Luger, use chain teleport right now! Count Le has appeared, we have to kill Crolang before Le gets here!

There’s no time to check if the problem with the communication jamming was resolved. Leeha immediately whispered to Luger. Without answering, Luger cast chain teleport and went to Leeha and Kidd.

“W-wait. Bluebeard? You mean Bluebeard is up there?”

“That’s right! We don’t have time to talk about him, hurry up! If we don’t kill Crolang quickly and run away, the quest will fail! Do you understand what I’m saying, Luger?”

Leeha’s hand trembled as he loaded the Black Bass.

It was very brief, but he could tell. It was the same way he felt the first time he saw Luger in Castle Dale, when his muzzle was pointed at him.

The moment he pulled the trigger, Leeha felt he knew what would happen to him!

‘Death.’

He didn’t feel that way when he saw the Gold Dragon.

Of course, it may have been because the distance was far away at that time. However, one of the Fragments of the Demon King, Bluebeard, who appeared right in front of him, was a different level of pressure.

“Let’s go.”

Luger did not ask Leeha. He had no idea what was going on up there. The only important thing was that Bluebeard was there.

And Luger had a strong feeling that he would come to this place after quickly sorting out the situation up there.

It was a feeling that only those who had met and experienced Bluebeard could understand.

“I don’t know what the hell is going on.”

When Leeha and Luger ran out, revealing their bodies, Kidd didn’t know what to do.

“Let’s get closer! If Kidd and I clear up the surrounding trolls, Luger can focus on Crolang, focus only on killing Crolang as fast as possible, and then we leave immediately!”

Kuma could not be included in the long-distance teleport.

With the soul link skill released and Kuma disappearing, the three of them charged toward a thousand northern trolls and their king.

In the end, after peeking, observing, and bickering, the three people took the lead in clearing the quest in the most primitive and simple way.

“Do you fight with your mouth? 『Panzer Shrek』!”

Bang——-!

Luger’s gun fired first. A northern troll was shattered and turned into million pieces of meat.

“Grrrrrrr一……. Human meat is the count’s favorite. Tear them to pieces.”

Yo! —!”

Aruhi一! Aruru一!

With an ear-piercing scream, the northern trolls also started running.

『Bullet Storm』.”

It was Kidd’s rampage that followed Luger’s shot. The most useful skill to deal with multiple enemies at once. The movement of Kidd’s red coat stood out even more against the blue troll’s movement to surround the three musketeers.

“The fastest way- This way!”

Click, baaaaaaaaang——-!

Leeha pulled his trigger as he lagged behind. A northern troll raised a shield to stop Kidd from shooting his barrage of bullets, only to get shot by Leeha.

Turururuk.”

The bullet pierced the northern troll’s calf, and the monster’s scream rang out. Luger aimed his gun at that troll.

“Finish them properly, 『Bullseye』.”

And then Baaaaaang……! In front of Luger’s attack, it didn’t matter whether the trolls were holding a shield or not. After all, the only option was for them to die.

Kidd’s revolver mainly aimed at the back of the giant trolls’ hands, shoulders, necks, and elbows, and Leeha’s Black Bass finished them off with a howl.

Leeha, Luger, and Kidd worked together in breaking through the encirclement of the northern trolls and advanced through.

If one were looking from the sky, it would look like a thick blue layer was blocking the gap between Crolang and the Three Musketeers. Of course, that gap was made out of northern trolls.

Which were now 15% stronger.

(To be continued…)
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‘Damn it, most of my skills are used to help augment my sniping, so it’s hard to deal with this many…. Additionally, it’s difficult to aim at Crolang in this position. We have to deal with him quickly!’

Leeha glanced at Crolang in the distance.

Even though his subjects were suffering, the troll king’s expression was relaxed. It was impossible to aim for him in the middle of such a mess. The troll king, well aware that his size could be a weakness, moved while crouching down so as to keep himself hidden.

“Cheurururup, kill, rip!”

Crolang pulled his head up and let out a strange noise. The expression of the northern trolls became frenzied at his wolf-like cry.

『The king of the northern trolls, crolang, has begun to lead his troops.)

『The movement speed of all trolls in the northern troll village has increased by 30%.』

“This.”

Kidd, whose Bullet Storm’s duration had already finished, drew his revolvers and aimed between the eyes of one of the northern trolls. Kidd fired three consecutive shots by panning, but none of the bullets reached the middle of its forehead as he had intended.

It survived by moving its head with great reaction speed!

Even with its ripped cheeks, broken tusks, and ears torn to pieces, the northern troll refused to die.

“Karat- Ka-!”

“Move, charge, rip everything apart!”

At Crolang’s war cry, the northern trolls began to push even harder. With their strengthened attack power, defense power, and strength, their movement speed became faster than before!

Now, each of their strengths could be felt with great force.

“Cough, faster!”

And it began to have an effect on the Black Bass’s accuracy. Of course, it didn’t matter if the troll in front of him moved to avoid the shot, since the troll in the back would get hit, but the encirclement was gradually getting tighter.

『Panzer Shrek』!”

Light flashed from Luger’s barrel.


His bullet’s effect wasn’t simply to penetrate. It tore through the chest of one northern troll and exploded right in front of the next one.

“Kyarararat-!”

“Churu, arurururu-!”

“What are you doing? The name of the Three Musketeers is wasted on you!”

“Shut it, I don’t know what I should do if 『Pierce』 shoots first!”

“Use your skills!”

When the northern trolls hesitated and retreated, Leeha took out a bomb and held it. When overlapped, the explosion from the bomb was powerful enough to destroy the gates of Minis’ castle.

“This is Hell Anvil’s Specialty bomb, you ignorant troll bastards!”

Booooom——!

It was so powerful that not only the northern trolls were blown away by the explosion but could also be felt by the other musketeers as well.

“Kidd! I don’t have anything that can be considered an area attack-”

“Pheeew, I know.”

They had to get out of there before the trolls could rearrange themselves and encircle them again. Kidd, who had become accustomed to team battles through the national war, could also understand Leeha’s timing.

However, Kidd’s expression hardened. Delighted and regretful, he quickly alternated between Leeha and Luger.

“I didn’t want to show this……. Get down, both of you.”

“What? What are you talk-”

“What kind of bullshit are you trying to do by making us lie down?”

『Wild Punch』.”

Pushing away Leeha and a furious Luger, Kidd quietly whispered the name of the skill.

“Oh Shi-!”


“You crazy!.”

The two people who had raised their voices a moment ago immediately threw themselves to the ground.

It was because they could feel what would happen to them if they didn’t follow Kidd’s warning, and a terrifying energy ran down their spines.

Lying flat on the floor, they turned over from a prone position and looked at Kidd. They even rubbed their eyes.

‘Am I seeing things?’

Two on the left, and two on the right. It seemed as if four blurry figures were barely visible. What the hell was that skill? Just as they were thinking this, Kidd and the four blurry figures stood in a circle with their backs to each other. Leeha did not know if the other Kidds could be called a person- Suddenly bullets flew like a falcon.

It meant that the four of them shot four six-shot revolvers in all directions. Nearly 100 bullets were fired in an instant. Tang! Bang! And among other sounds.

Ddada一 da—-dada一dadak-!

There was a time when Leeha was in a state of confusion from Luger’s attack, but even then he was able to respond, but now he wondered if he would have been able to avoid Kidd’s attack.

It was like rain fell horizontally. It was truly a rain of bullets.

The northern trolls had all sorts of buffs due to Crolang, but nothing could save them from Kidd’s skill.

“Uwaaak, what the hell kind of attack is that?!”

“When can I get a skill like that…”

Leeha and Luger were talking beside each other, but they couldn’t hear each other’s voices. It was so deafening that they couldn’t even hear each other at all.

Shortly after 96 shots were fired, a soft silence followed, and before Leeha and Luger could say anything, Kidd and ‘them’ had already finished reloading their revolvers and took their stance again.

The rain of bullets fell upon the trolls twice.

96 rounds * 2 rounds of attack skills, 192 rounds of bullets applied with enchantment damage were fired in just over 10 seconds.

“Pheeeew…”

10 seconds after Kidd had cast his skill, blue trolls laid down on the ground like dominoes.

It was after all of ‘those’ blurry figures disappeared.


“What are you doing? Get up quickly.”

“F-Foul! Isn’t that foul play? What kind of skill is that-”

“Your eyes are foul.”

“Kidd! After we go back this time-”

“I won’t fight you, Luger!

After cutting off Leeha and Luger’s words, Kidd took the lead. He did not forget to scratch his chin for a moment while putting on a proud expression.

“Right, this is not the time. We need to concentrate! Let’s see how we can de-”

“-Let’s see how you deal with Crolang. The memory of that day comes to mind like it was just yesterday.”

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger all stopped.

The northern trolls also stopped moving. They couldn’t help but see someone lifting a teacup over the corpse of a fallen northern troll.

“Bluebeard…”

They frantically advanced toward Crolang, but they still couldn’t make it. It hadn’t even been more than 5 minutes, yet…

No, maybe it was less than 3 minutes.

Leeha wanted to look at the location he was at right before. He wanted to know what happened to the Czar’s members. There was not a single wrinkle in Bluebeard’s suit.

“Oh, you’re the young lad from before. Would you like a cup of tea?”

The teacup he held out contained bright red liquid. Luger did not answer.

There was only silence.

Leeha looked at Bluebeard and carefully gripped the bolt. His seated body disappeared in an instant. A voice came behind Leeha’s back.

“Elizabeth will be glad to see you. That this is still there.”

“Eeeek 一”

Chwiiik-!

Leeha shot the needle-gun pistol toward the direction of the sound. Baaang-! Grapeshot bullets were fired, but there was nothing there.

Bluebeard sat on the troll’s corpse again.

“It’s just like her to get aggressive. Hoho, crolang! I wanted to have tea time, but it’s a pity.”

“Churururu, I greet the count.”

Crolang got off his strange mount and got down on one knee.

Every northern troll alive also fell onto their knees. Bluebeard raised his hand casually. The expression on his middle-aged face was bright.

“It’s our first time meeting after 20 years. You don’t have to do that. It’s embarrassing. When did you have so many children? If we had an army like this 20 years ago, we would have been able to hold out a little longer.”

“Churururu, I was preparing to be the count’s strength. There are six more besides this village.”

“Ohh, seven thousand northern trolls. It will definitely help. However, isn’t your strength too weak for that? It wasn’t even those three from 20 years ago…. To be struggling with those young people. I don’t think that would be enough support, what do you think?”

Bluebeard’s voice was light, but it contained criticism. Crolang bared his teeth ferociously.

“Chururu, I will finish them off right away.”

“We’ll see. I hope you finish them before the tea gets cold.”

“As you command.”

When Crolang stood up, Bluebeard sipped and touched the teacup.

Like cappuccino foam, his blue mustache was soaked in bright red liquid. The three musketeers with distorted expressions quietly whispered.

‘He said there are 6 more villages? Did you know that, Luger?’

‘……I have never been beyond this village. No, I couldn’t go.’

‘Pretending to be arrogant! What are we going to do now?’

It was also the reason why they couldn’t find Crolang in the beginning. However, strictly speaking, it wasn’t Luger’s fault either. In fact, it was a road that users could not even enter until recently.

In other words, it was as if the world had been opened after this incident.

Of course, Luger would not have known this fact. Kidd sighed and tried to clear things up. However, whether it’s their bickering or their crumpled expression, the trio’s opinion was the same from the start and everyone understood that fact well.

‘What are you two doing? Stay focused. We have to get Crolang quick-’

‘-Tear the scrolls quickly-’

‘-We have to retreat!’

Leeha’s hands moved first. The Black Bass moved and quickly fired at Crolang!

Baaaaaang!

However, it didn’t reach.

There was no object as vulnerable as getting shot directly by a rifle. However, the bullet lost its momentum as it hit the heads and chests of several northern trolls.

“Damn it! Kidd, get me a visual, get rid of the trolls in front of me! I only need one clean shot!”

“Easy for you to say.”

Kidd alone can clear 200 heads in an instant, and Leeha had already killed 100 of them, but there were still 700 left.

His revolver fired in turns.

The trolls died after being shot in the head, collarbone, and chest, one after the other. There were still too many trolls blocking Leeha’s view as he was aiming for Crolang’s head.

In the midst of the gunshots and riot, Luger quietly bit his lip.

“Tie Crolang’s feet.”

“What?”

“Do not block 『Cobalt Blue Python』s muzzle for 5 seconds. 

‘Strengthen Artillery: Flat Fire’.”

Leeha and Kidd understood what Luger was muttering to himself. He had another skill.

5 seconds, but with the endlessly moving northern trolls, it was not easy to stop Crolang, who was moving in a big circle behind the trolls. Additionally, crolang wasn’t stupid. The king, who had seven thousand northern trolls as his children, never underestimated the strength of the three.

4 seconds, literally like hunting for prey, the Three Musketeers were slowly looking for an opportunity until their strength ran out and they could no longer hold on.

“Kidd! Left, fire!”

3 seconds, as soon as he heard the three words he shouted, Kidd’s hands moved

Tatata—!

The sound of the revolver firing never stopped.

Rather than trying to hit Crolang, it was to block Crolang, who was drawing a circle counterclockwise.

2 seconds, in that moment of hesitation, Leeha raised the Black Bass.

He changed magazines and shot twice. Three bullets left.

Click, baaaaaang一! Click, baaaaang一!

“Churururub……. Surely…its power cannot be ignored.”

The bullet flew past Crolang.

In other words, Kidd and Leeha were randomly firing bullets in front of and behind where Crolang could move. Even as Crolang watched his children’s bodies be torn apart and their heads explode, he still remained calm.

1 second, while the king of the northern trolls went still, the gun barrel that aimed at the gap between Kidd and Leeha flashed. Luger had finished casting.

『Jagdpanzer Cannon』.”

“That was what woke me up.”

Bluebeard nodded in admiration.

The sense of crisis that his subordinate might die was not something a Demon King’s Fragment could feel.

0 seconds————!

The bullet fired from the reinforced Cobalt Blue Python shot through the trolls.

Their numbers dispersed as the northern trolls surrounded the Three Musketeers, but there were still a hundred of them between Crolang and Luger.

It was not even a fraction of a second.

Without surprising Leeha and Kidd, the shot ripped through a hundred trolls and finally reached Crolang. No, it reached exactly what Crolang was holding.

(To be continued…)
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 Claaaaang——!

Sharp sparks appeared around Crolang.

The thing that led to Luger’s defeat was that although he knew his skills, he did not know the power of the king of the northern trolls.

“Damn it!”

“All we can do now… is to retreat.”

The faces of the Three Musketeers, including Luger, were distorted.

No matter how powerful the anti-tank gun was, it did not have infinite energy! Luger’s skill, which penetrated hundreds of northern trolls, was blocked when it collided with the weapon Crolang quickly lifted.

It was obvious that he wouldn’t be able to use this powerful skill consecutively, and the frustration that his final move had been blocked permeated through the air.

Except for one person.

“Calm down! It’s not over yet! 『Calm Mind』!”

It was the skill cast and shout that woke Kidd and Luger’s spirits.

Leeha knelt down and pulled the bolt. It was nonsense, it was a circus act.

‘But I have to do it, even if I look like a clown or whatever!’

Click-!

One last bullet was loaded. Leeha clearly saw that the bullet fired by Luger’s reinforced cannon, Jagdpanzer, made a ‘path’ towards Crolang.

How could the huge shell reach Crolang? It pierced the bodies of the trolls before him and shot forward. That too with incredible speed, and overwhelming power!

In other words, the bodies of the northern trolls did not recognize they were dead, and still ‘stood’.

Of course, they will collapse soon. But still, as long as their beastly hearts pumped, those bodies still had to stand up for around 0.3 seconds.

Leeha aimed for that gap.

It was only 0.3 seconds.


Spatially, there was a path between the holes in the bodies of the trolls. Luger and Kidd hadn’t realized anything yet. Not to mention Crolang, who had not figured out the situation yet. What is he going to do?

“Haaaa…”

And Leeha, the only person who was aware of the situation, aligned his line of sight and took a deep breath.

In that brief moment of exhaling and stopping, he pulled the trigger.

The bullet fired from the Black Bass was a thread. A thin strand of thread threaded through the holed bodies of the trolls like the eye of a needle.

 A strand of black thread touched Crolang’s neck.

“Fuuu…… Haaa……”

Leeha took a breath of air.

“What is…”

“You shot a bullet through the gap created by my skill? What nonsense-”

However, they couldn’t do anything even if they didn’t believe it.

Kidd and Luger looked at Crolang’s eyes filled with absurdity. The king of the northern trolls spewed blood from the new hole in his neck.

“ASdasd一……”

He had a hole in his throat, so he could not speak.

The king of the northern trolls, wide-eyed, began to fall backward. While the 10 m body fell, the corpses of the northern trolls that had been attacked by Luger collapsed.

As if the timing was right, all the corpses made a noise as they hit the ground.

Kuuuuung…….

Thin pieces of ice rose from the frozen ground and were blown away by the wind.

Ting!! Ting!! Ting!!

Bluebeard clapped his hands as if he had seen an opera. His expression looked quite excited.


“Amazing! How did you do it? Did you use magic bullets? I guess I have to retract what I said! Aren’t you as good as those young ones from 20 years ago? No, even now I want you-”

“Scrooooooolll!!!!!”

The Three Musketeers were not stupid enough to listen to Bluebeard’s words and wait. Kidd and Luger, who were briefly dumbfounded by Leeha’s amazing accomplishment, also moved like lightning. As soon as the notification window appeared in front of them, they did not waste any time.

Riiip-!

『The king of the northern trolls, crolang, has fallen.』

『All trolls in the northern troll village are weakened by 50% for 1 hour.』

“Wait! I still have something to say-”

Shyuuuuk!

Using the return scroll, the figures of the three disappeared in an instant. Bluebeard looked into the air with a regretful expression and licked his lips.

“Tsk, that’s too bad. If they are raised well, they would be better than those guys before. No, maybe all three of them-”

“Arut, ka-……

“Churururu…”

Bluebeard no longer spoke. It was because the northern trolls who had lost their king and father were gathering around him.

“……Oh, dear. Did you become instantly stupid after you lost your king?”

Bluebeard frowned but soon changed back to a benevolent expression. Then, he slowly moved his feet in front of Crolang’s corpse.

“Even then, it was more about leadership than brute force……. Okay, anyway, with you, even your children would be able to-”

Pausing for a moment, Bluebeard tapped his silver staff twice on the floor. The frozen land turned into a swamp. The body of the giant Crolang disappeared as if it was sucked into the ground.

“-I have to wake ‘Pyrot Cocri’ soon. No, no, would it be better to wake ‘Gibli’ up? It’s better to be alive than to be resurrected as a corpse…… well…… no matter who, I should know where they lay first. I will be busy running around for a while. Don’t I?”

Kiiiiiiiik—-!

The mysterious horse that Crolang had been riding laid down in front of Bluebeard, uttering a strange cry. The 10m tall mount was much larger than Bluebeard, but he lightly leaped and sat on the beast’s back.


“You guys stay in the village as you do now. Your king will definitely return. Let’s go.”

Aturururu…….

As the northern trolls silently knelt down, the gigantic mount of Bluebeard started running.

*****

They had no time to calm their beating heart.

The place they arrived at using the return scroll was ‘the nearest town’. From there, the three of them moved nonstop to Aelstock, using a crystal ball without talking to each other.

It was because the three of them felt the danger that Bluebeard could slaughter them if he wanted to.

“Heuk, heuk, heuk.”

“Haa, haa.”

“Pheew…”

And when they finally arrived at the warm capital, the three of them caught their breath.

The three of them were silent for a while.

They just looked into each other’s eyes and made strange faces. It was because they seemed to be happy, curious, and flustered.

Kidd opened his mouth first as he watched the two breathe out.

“Anyway…… we did it.”

He put in his hat and said, and a smile could be seen on his lips.

“Right. I don’t know if we really did it, or not but, hehe.”

It was only natural that they couldn’t handle Bluebeard’s overwhelming pressure at the moment. They were worried about what would happen if they even stopped escaping, but fortunately, nothing happened. However, the reason Leeha laughed right away was Kidd’s words. The joy of surviving was great.

‘However, too many of our weaknesses were exposed. Isn’t it a bit excessive?’

Most importantly… he did not have a lot of skills. Not against Bluebeard, but against Kidd and Luger…

Even though he was the successor of 『Bullseye』, except for the high damage output and overwhelming range, it was difficult to continue fighting with auxiliary skills alone. Moreover, the range was dependent on the individual’s skills, and it was difficult to see it as a power of a skill.

It was less than what he had hoped for until now, but after seeing Kidd’s and Luger’s skills, who had the same job, he could not help but feel even more regretful.

“……How did you catch it?”

“Huh?”

“I asked how you caught him.”

However, he was not the only one who thought that way.

Luger also couldn’t help but turn cold when he saw Leeha’s incredible shooting skills. Even Kidd, who had seen Leeha’s performance again and again, couldn’t close his mouth. It wasn’t strange that Luger, who had never been active with Leeha before, was surprised.

“How did you shoot and hit it?”

“What is the skill name?”

“What skill? I don’t have any skills.”

Only Kidd, who knew that Leeha wasn’t lying, let out a small sound.

 ‘Are you saying that he really caught that thing on his own abilities…?. Through the holes in the corpses……?’

With a sigh. However, Luger couldn’t believe it.

His eyebrows went up.

“Don’t play around, answer me, 『Bullseye』. No… Ha Leeha.”

Luger lowered his voice and spoke as if he was threatening him, but Leeha’s expression straightened.

“Oh? Calling me by my name now, right, you need to be nice too. Still, if you keep making me feel so distant, the three-”

“Shut up and just answer. What skill did you use and how did you catch it? How were you able to hit Crolang by aiming through the holes in the body of over a hundred trolls? Is there such a thing as an ‘absolute accuracy’ skill? Tell me the name of the skill and the way to get it right away.”

Of course, that friendship was quickly broken.

Luger growled and threatened, showing his teeth. Luger’s obsession with skills, in other words, his obsession with ‘strength’ exceeded Leeha’s expectations.

And looking at Luger’s attitude, Leeha could definitely get a sense of Luger.

‘He’s more like a child. No, it’s not just being young. Rather, it’s… being pure. Phew, looking at this pomade man, I think he’s pure.’

Luger’s attitude of literally wanting to be the strongest. Even his method of becoming the strongest is ‘1:1 fight’. What could be purer than this?

The passion of wanting to be number one was the height of simplicity in Leeha’s eyes.

‘Is it the reason why Alexander and Lee Jiwon avoid Luger and do not take him on?’

What if the two decided to kill Luger? Luger might have been great in terms of attack power, but there’s no way they couldn’t beat him. Luger would be tough as well, but it’s clear that their win rate would be slightly higher.

Why do they keep sparing Luger and can’t be bothered to kill him several times to lower his level?

Leeha seemed to have a vague idea for this reason. He was annoying, but he was a person that couldn’t be hated.

“What are you talking about?! I think I have to have a conversation with Headmaster Browless. I am the only one with a strange skill system. This is so unreasonable!”

“W-what?”

So he was able to treat Luger relatively comfortably. In a playful exaggerated manner, Leeha complained to Luger and then to Kidd.

“Don’t you think so too, Kidd? Right! Before that, what? 『Wild Punch』? I almost bit my tongue while looking at the skill. And what about you Luger, like a rail gun!. What is it? It’s a total cheat! I’m the only one who has nothing!” 『Wild Punch』 and 『Jagdpanzer Cannon』. Leeha spoke the names of the skills as he thought of them. Seeing how Leeha spoke and behaved, Kidd felt something. The Texas outlaw sighed and pointed at the Black Bass.

“Your accuracy and attack power is also a scam.”

“It’s just because I am good. I need a skill, a skill!. Don’t I?”

“Well, since you became the last of the Three Musketeers, isn’t it natural that you lack skills? You are still far away, Ha Leeha.”

“Hmmmm…. Sounds about right. If you say it like that. If I think carefully, there’s nothing wrong with what Kidd said.”

“Did you just think of that now?”

Luger was the only one who couldn’t adapt to the two’s conversation.

“W-what are you two talking about? Answer me properly, Ha Leeha!”

The pomade blonde looked at Leeha and Kidd alternately and got angry. Leeha nd Kidd looked in different directions and smiled.

“It’s noisy, so let’s go and finish the quest. Let’s go!”

Leeha pushed Luger on the back. Even if he tried to scream, he was pushed by Leeha and Luger had no choice but to move.

****

“What- Cough!”

The shoulder of the user who raised his arm to block the entrance was torn. Blood gushed out like a fountain, but there was no instakill judgment. This is because the attacker opened the lid of a potion bottle and poured it into his arm.

“Guide me. I have something to hear.”

They were in one of Minis’ cities. Although it was located in the suburbs of the city with the purpose of a luxury bar, it was not just a security guard, but a place where the Knights of the Guard roamed.

Even so, the attacker’s demeanor was unstoppable.

(To be continued…)
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“I-Igor, you- Chiyou-nim will not forgive you for being rude like this-”

The attacker’s, Igor’s, expression, contorted for a moment.

To think that even such a piss-poor user ignored him. This is why he didn’t like this group.

Those with low levels, and with even weaker skills, believe in only one leader, and even that leader was an idiot who serves a weak and cowardly woman!

“Blood-”

Swiiiiit, kuwak-!

As Igor was about to suck the user’s blood, a shuriken flew at high speed. It was aimed at Igor’s face, but the giant caught it in between his teeth.

“…… What is this, Igor?”

The person who threw the shuriken was Sasuke. He didn’t throw it to kill him, but he didn’t feel very good when his own shuriken was blocked so effortlessly.

“Thwek! I have nothing to say to that rat bastard. If you don’t want me to blow up your hideout, call her right away.”

Igor spat out the shuriken, threw the player he was holding, and walked toward Sasuke.

His attitude seemed to say that it didn’t matter to him if there were knights, how many there were, and the PK penalties.

‘As expected, a person who has nothing to lose is the most…’

Sasuke’s face wriggled at Igor’s attitude toward Chiyou, but he did not react in particular.

It was because if the third-ranked Berserker started rampaging, this place could really turn into chaos. Other rankers wouldn’t do it for the sake of saving face, but Igor didn’t care.

That thought blocked Sasuke from making any hasty actions.

“I will call Oka-san, so please wait inside.”

“You have 3 minutes.”

Two people who used to need each other but could never like each other stood face to face. Sasuke looked up at Igor for a moment before opening his mouth.


“And like I said earlier……. If you treat her carelessly, you will never be accepted by our organization.”

“Kyahahaha, you’re talking like a wet blanket! You cowardly Japanese bastard.”

Igor kicked the furniture installed and entered the room without hesitation. Looking at the Berserker’s back, Sasuke gritted his teeth for a moment. If he was prepared to die, he might be able to fight him. If only Czar was not with him. Perhaps he could finish Igor off with a surprise attack.

‘After that, if Czar rushes in- no, oka-san wouldn’t like it. At least not right now.’

It was incomprehensible to Sasuke that she did not dislike Igor’s action and unexpectedness. In the end, Sasuke gave up and went to report to Chiyou.

After a while, Chiyou appeared in a fancy costume.

She had a frown for a moment, but her expression quickly straightened. With a professional smile on her face, she met Igor.

“I wonder what’s going on. This isn’t what I asked for, is it? It’s enough to talk through a whisper-”

Shhhhh

Igor’s frame shifted in an instant. As if teleportation, Igor’s fingernails turned red and grew longer.

“Were you trying to kill me?”

“Oho, I don’t think you have to do this. If you come to someone else’s house, you should be polite. No matter how ignorant you may be, isn’t there an etiquette in Russia as well?” (The etiquette in Russia is that you kill those who try to kill you, lol)

“Shut up and answer me. I asked if you were trying to kill me.”

Compared to his harsh words and actions, Igor’s eyes were calm.

It was natural for Igor and Czar, who had only heard about the Three Musketeers, to think this way. However, Chiyou also did not know all the information perfectly, so she understood Igor’s reaction to some extent

However, why does the ignorant giant in front of him react this much?

‘Hmm, as expected, there must have been something there. What happened? Something entertaining must have happened for you to be here…”

Chiyou did not panic when she saw Igor’s fingernails grow toward her neck. After calmly organizing her thoughts, she just needed to say a word.

“Should I request the fulfillment of the 『Contract』? I don’t know what’s going on either, so don’t do anything rash and tell me what happened. If you want to face us, we won’t avoid it, but I am warning you in advance because I don’t think those in “Czar” will like it.”

Czar was a guild in Middle Earth that Igor could control like his own limb.


Even though, strictly speaking, Igor did not belong to Czar. One reason for this is that in the virtual world of ‘Middle Earth’, where real capital and information is concentrated, it was needed for competent people to be able to secretly lead it and to push it towards a greater goal.

Most of the Czar’s personnel were obliged to obey Igor’s words, but those who tried to command and lead the Czar from outside did not.

Chiyou touched on that point.

“…… Damned bitch……. Good. I’ll trust that it’s not your fault.”

“Ohoho, okay, it’s good to trust each other. Right, so tell me what happened?”

Chiyou certainly was not an ordinary user.

Igor had no choice but to release his anger, since their rankings did not differ that much. Shortening his fingernail, Igor sat down on the sofa again.

“A man appeared.”

“Human?”

“Right. Not a ranker. I don’t even know his name.”

“What did he look like?”

“He had a 19th century English suit. The bastard had a disgusting Bluebeard, find out where such a powerful person appeared from and tell me everything you can uncover.”

Chiyou’s eyes widened for a moment at the words Bluebeard but showed no further reaction.

“Was he strong?”

“…… Kuhahahaha, that’s why I came. If I can drink his blood, I would be able to kill both Alexander and Lee Jiwon in one shot. There’s a high possibility that he is an outsider, so start digging from there.”

Igor knew very well that he had no chance of winning in a 1-on-1 fight. But there was no such thing as impossible in this world. Everyone has a weakness, and if he attacked his weakness, he could deal with him himself.

As Chiyou listened to Igor’s words, she understood the value of ‘Bluebeard’ in an instant.

How strong was Igor, who refused to acknowledge even those who were a higher level than himself, to the extent that he would say this?

‘As expected of a Demon King’s Fragment……. Besides, to be rated like this, I guess I should focus on this rather than Ha Leeha for the time being? There’s a possibility that he could be connected to Ha Leeha anyway.’

In other words, Chiyou quickly topped the classification system according to the size of its influence. She knew how to prioritize and work. Quickly organizing her thoughts, she looked at Igor and nodded.


“Okay. If I find out about that user, I will tell you everything. Ah, what about Ha Leeha, Kidd, and Luger? Anything special happened?”

Chiyou was Chiyou in the end.

Even if information about Bluebeard came, Igor would not hear it. Bluebeard is not a user.

This is one of her specialties.

She smiled cautiously and listened as Igor unravelled the story about the Three Musketeers.

—————————————————————————————————————————-

“Hmm…… it isn’t here either? Well, if it was in a place like this, Luger or Kidd would have already found it.”

Creaaak, as Leeha pushed the old stone door closed again and exited the dungeon. There was no way Kaztor’s laboratory would appear in a level 100 dungeon.

Two days had passed since he reported to Browless about Crolang.

After hearing that Bluebeard had appeared, Browless was silent for a moment. No more additional quests happened. All he said was that he would go to Ezwen for a while to report on the Demon King’s Fragment. Therefore, the Three Musketeers had some free time now.

‘I was going to finish Kaztor’s quest while I had time… and Luger and Kidd seem to be doing the same. Still, it’s hard even if there is an additional clue, which is ‘human’.’

Leeha was in the process of moving his feet, wondering if there would be a hiding place in the dungeon where people would go to quite often.

 “Phew, there wasn’t much of a reward……. Anyway, the titles are good, the three musketeers, the descendants of heroes, and so on. It only makes me suffer.”

After completing the Crolang quest, he received Continental Reputation, and a title – Lookout, but those things were not very important to him. In fact, the effects were not very good.

‘It’s a relief that I got to know a little bit about Luger, and that I got closer to Kidd. Should I get closer to Luger in the future-…… Is it even possible? Keung.’

Rather, it was good for Leeha to do the Three Musketeers quest together with the other members of the Three Musketeers and get to know them a little more.

Although the quest ended before they had originally intended, a day spent in a life-and-death struggle was worth more than 7 days doing nothing.

‘The title is not much anyway. I didn’t have any expectations from the beginning, but…’

『Title: Peeker(B)』

Your eyes see through the inside as well.

Effect: You can figure out the information of the target

(Cannot figure out when prohibition scroll is used)

‘If you’re going to do this, you should give it as an achievement instead of a title. Titles don’t overlap.’

It was said that he could figure out the level, stats, and number of achievements, but the tip attached at the end was fatal. This is because users who have reached a certain level hide their information anyway. Therefore, Leeha did not change his title, and still used ‘Fearless’.

He was glad, though.

Because there were still additional rewards other than those listed.

‘Heuheu, I thought the 10 stat points were mine, but-!’

『Achievement: Enemy of the Northern Trolls(B+)』

Congratulations! You have defeated Crolang, the chief of the northern trolls. Your skill at slaying large monsters is admirable! The trolls are enraged at those who killed Crolang, the king and father of the northern trolls. Now that it’s like this, all that’s left is a life-and-death decision, right?

Reward: Strength +10, agility +5,

Additional damage when attacked by large monsters +10%

Additional damage when attacking large monsters +5%

You are the third one to register for the 『Enemy of the Northern Trolls』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the hall of fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: Strength +20, agility +10,

Additional damage when attacked by large monsters +20%

Additional damage when attacking large monsters +10%

Kidd and Luger also received the achievement. Even the hall of fame. In other words, the Three Musketeers were amicably elevated to the hall of fame.

Leeha and Luger liked it because of the agility, but Kidd liked it for another reason as well. 15% additional attack power when attacking large monsters!

‘However, the additional damage when hit is 30%, so it can be regarded as the best achievement for melee dealers, but…’

Who were the Three Musketeers?

In fact, even in the previous battle, the northern trolls didn’t hit even one of them. The Three Musketeers were talented people who ignore the penalty of their skills and only take out the benefits.

As for large monsters, Kidd, who did not have a single target of his, killed in one shot during the battle with the trolls, liked it even more. After all, it should be able to help close the gap with Luger, even by a little.

‘He was so proud of himself while scratching his chin pretending to be embarrassed. He should be thinking that 『Crimson Geckos』 would be more active now.’

Leeha smiled as he thought of Kidd. And he looked at another achievement that he hadn’t told the two of them about.

『Achievement: One Shot, one Kill! — King of the Northern Trolls(A)』

Congratulations! Crolang, the King of the Northern Trolls, had been defeated in one blow! You who enjoy becoming the light in a cloudy Middle Earth. We ask that you continue to work harder for humanity. Before that time comes, I hope you become even a little stronger……

Reward: Strength +8, agility +8

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『One Shot, one kill – King of the Northern Troll』. The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the hall of fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect : Strength +16, agility +16

“Wow……! Luger’s bullets didn’t even do any damage!”

Right. Luger’s attack was deflected by Crolang’s weapon. Therefore, his damage was counted as 0. In the meantime, Leeha’s bullet pierced Crolang’s neck and killed him.

‘I’ll keep this a secret for the rest of my life.’

Even the 10 stats points he had put into agility would have sparked jealousy in Kidd and Luger’s eyes. However, if Leeha said that he got the one-shot achievement, he didn’t know what kind of disaster he would suffer. As Leeha left the dungeon, he heard a whisper that made his head dizzy.

-Are you not coming? You don’t need the money anymore, right?

It was an angry and scolding tone of voice as if looking for an argument. However, it was somehow still said in a friendly manner.

After confirming Ram Hwayeon’s location, Leeha activated his crystal ball instead of answering. After a while, he disappeared near the entrance of the dungeon and appeared inside Castle Dale. To be exact, it was a place where only a few people could enter in through Castle Dale.

“There’s no way I wouldn’t get my cut of the profits-”

“Kyaaaaak!”

(To be continued…)
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 “Ice Spi-”

“Ah! Wait! -wait! I-It’s me! Ha Leeha!”

Ram Hwayeon, who was lying on the bed and looking at documents, screamed, while Ram Hwajung, who was sitting on the sofa and fiddling with ice cubes, immediately started casting.

That was the first location stored in the crystal ball held by Ha Leeha.

『Hwajung’s Favorite Place』

1. Unni’s house – it’s warm and fluffy, so I feel good.

And it was also the part that showed how ignorant Leeha was about women’s relationships. How dare he break into a woman’s house mercilessly. If Kijung had known, he would have poured out fierce criticism toward Leeha.

(I think anyone would be upset if someone broke in lol)

“-Oppa.”

“Ha…… Ha Leeha? How did you get here?”

When they found out that it was Leeha, Ram Hwajung stopped casting, but the Ram sisters were still absent-minded.

“Ah, what a surprise! Didn’t you ask me to come?! That’s why I came right away!”

Leeha replied while holding his chest in surprise.

Ram Hwayeon wanted to know how he came, but she couldn’t afford to say anything right away either.

“Uhh…… no, that…… the place you can come right away……. The lock-”

“The house is nice. As expected of the master of Hwahong Guild, your house in Middle Earth is no joke. Kijung’s safe house is so shabby that it’s all about to collapse. Ah, is this private property? Do you have any special buffs when you are here?”

Ram Hwayeon opened her mouth, but her mosquito-like voice did not reach Leeha’s ears. Leeha admired Middle Earth’s Housing System, which he had experienced for the first time in his life.

“Can I change clothes? Because Leeha only saw her in combative clothes, now that he saw her in those clothes, his words were swallowed into his throat. His expression, which had been inspecting the house with curious eyes, gradually hardened.

It was because of their clothes that he realized an obvious fact. Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwajung weren’t wearing the clothes they usually wore.

They were even barefoot while wearing sky-blue one-piece pajamas!


In the meantime, after a couple of ‘color matching’, the toes of Ram Hwayeon with a red pedicure, and Ram Hwajung with a blue pedicure were wiggling.

‘Uwaaaaa, c-come to think of it, isn’t this a house and not a safe house?! It wasn’t Castle Dale’s office, but a family home, so to speak! And there were two women!’

Leeha looked at Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung and turned his head. After talking about it, I realized the seriousness of the situation a little.

It was a place that was no different from a few places the two women who cannot properly rest in reality, and a secret base where they can lie down in comfortable clothes that cannot be worn in reality. Leeha had intruded into that forbidden space.

“Ahh……. Dress.”

Compared to Ram Hwayeon, who was still staring at Leeha, Ram Hwajung felt shame at first. The blue-haired girl, with her face flushed red, walked quickly into the dressing room. Her head lowered, and her long, straight blue hair covered her entire face.

“Cough, that…… over there, what is it? Ram Hwayeon-ssi? That, should…… I- go out?”

Leeha’s attitude was bound to abate in his sorry, embarrassed, and ungentlemanly behavior. Leeha forcibly averted his eyes, even using honorifics toward Ram Hwayeon.

“Ah, no, that…… how did you-wait- me too- change clothes…”

Ram Hwayeon could not behave as usual.

How did he get here? She didn’t go crazy! She could not speak properly, her usual temper, was nowhere to be found.

Seeing Leeha lowering his head, she got more embarrassed than her younger sister, Ram Hwajung.

It wasn’t until 10 minutes later that the two of them, who had turned their backs in awkward pose for a while, finally calmed down.

“Aren’t you crazy? If I report you to the Dale Knights, you’ll be detained right away! It’s trespassing! Huh?! Having a stake in Castle Dale and having the right to enter my house are two completely different things!”

“But…… I, I already said sorry……. right before. 10 times.”

“Still! You, I was really surprised. How did you get in? Did you learn the Lockpick skill? But it’s protected by magic, so you shouldn’t have been able to pick it!”

“That, that-”

Even if he was treated as a criminal, Leeha had nothing to say.

When Leeha raised his head, Ram Hwajung, who was standing behind Ram Hwayeon, shook her head desperately. Her eyes desperately pleaded Leeha to keep it a secret and not tell Ram Hwayeon why!

Leeha was able to get in because it was stored in the crystal ball he received from Ram Hwajung. If he said that, Ram Hwayeon might not only end up hating him but also Ram Hwajung.


If he didn’t say that, he had no other excuse…….

Leeha would really die.

‘If I had known this would happen, I would have just shut up and waited in Castle Dale! If I chatted with Jachung, time would have passed quickly!’

To save time and surprise them, he went to Ram Hwayeon’s location, and he vainly ended up getting into this mess! Fortunately, Ram Hwayeon’s fiery personality was easily extinguished.

“If you wanted to come, you should have told me in advance and I would have invited you.”

“What?”

“Cough, nothing! Anyway! N-next time, at least tell me in advance.”

“What?”

Isn’t it stored in the crystal ball? Give it to me right now or reset the crystal ball!! Leeha thought that was what would happen, but what’s going on? When Leeha tilted his head, Ram Hwayeon stood up and turned her back.

“The money- where is it.”

Looking at Ram Hwayeon’s back, who was rummaging thoroughly through the drawers, Leeha met Ram Hwajung’s eyes. The little lady nodded her head very slightly, wanting to say thank you. When Leeha smiled at her, Ram Hwajung turned her head away.

‘Didn’t you just say thank you? Why are you suddenly turning your head like you’re in a bad mood?’

It was times like this when Byulcho’s Kijung and Biyemi should have stepped up, but it was unfortunate for Leeha that they were not there. Ram Hwayeon sighed as she wrote the settlement check and handed it to Leeha.

“here’s a limit to what I take care of you, so come and take care of it often. You have to take care food.”

“Ah, ah. Yes. That’s right. Thanks.”

“Heung, I guess you lost interest in Castle Dale now that you will be taking the rewards alone.”

“How could that be? But what do you mean, a reward monopoly?”

“Didn’t you hear?”

Ram Hwayeon asked in surprise.

It was the first time Leeha heard it. He checked the reward announcement, but it was already a few days ago in Middle Earth. After that, he only did quests in the northernmost part of the Shazrashian Federation, in an uninhabited place, so he hadn’t heard it.


“Haa, oh my goodness. If you have connections in the palace, you should know how to use them! Anyway I wonder how you got the number 1 contribution. That- didn’t Shin Nara tell you?”

Ram Hwayeon subtly mentioned Shin Nara.

Of course, it was not that he did not have any contact with Shin Nara. However, apart from congratulating him, they didn’t have any conversation.

‘She said she was busy, and Nara-ssi treated me quite coldly.’

The last news he heard is that the Sacred Knights were being mobilized more often, such as dealing with the post-war situation in the capital and escorting officials to negotiate a peace treaty…

“I haven’t heard anything about the reward.”

“So you’re saying you heard something different, huh. Anyway! You should be receiving quite a few things this time. According to rumors…”

“According to rumors?”

“It’s literally a rumor, but it should be something that will make your stake in Castle Dale feel unimportant.”

“What are you talking about?”

“I won’t say anything because you will resent me if you get something different from what you’re expecting. Anyway, pray for the peace treaty negotiations between Fibiel and Minis to go well.”

Ram Hwayeon put on a faint smile while making a strange expression.

It didn’t seem to be a bad thing for Leeha, but she didn’t tell what it was, so he got curious.

“That’s boring. Anyway, I am always grateful for the settlement money. Anything else? I must go now.”

When Leeha got up from his seat, Ram Hwajung, who had been hiding behind Ram Hwayeon, poked out her head.

“Come play again, oppa.”

“Oh. Okay. I think I would die when I come like this again……. If you invite me, I will come again.”

“Yes, tell me when you want to come. I will invite you anytime.”

To come or not to come.

“Okay, okay. I will go now!”

“Ha- Ha Leeha!”

Ram Hwayeon’s attitude made Leeha smile and as he lifted the crystal ball. Ram Hwayeon called him.

“Huh?”

Ram Hwayeon called out to Leeha, but Ram Hwajung, who was beside her, had her eyes shining somehow. The Ram sisters hesitated for a while.

“Why? Tell me.”

“That…… I think I will go to Korea soon for some business.”

“Okay? Uh, the weather in Korea is fine this days.”

“I’m not talking about the weather!”

“Oh? Then?”

What was she talking about? Raising her voice, Ram Hwayeon only glanced at Leeha, avoiding eye contact.

“When go there, I think I will have a bit of time I just- want you to introduce me to a Korean restaurant. It won’t be long before we can go out without bodyguards, but you’re Korean anyway!”

“Korean…… that’s a person though.”

What does it have to do with it? Leeha pondered for a while between being a Korean and his duty to introduce Korean restaurant to Ram Hwayeon.

“Well, okay. I understand. I will search the internet and pull out a list-”

“Internet? Let’s meet and introduce ourselves! ! Because she is expecting it, Ram Hwajung sleeps late at night-”

“N-No.”

“-Heup, heup!”

Ram Hwajung quickly covered Ram Hwayeon’s mouth.

While the sisters were doing a skit, the word ‘promised meal’ suddenly passed through Leeha’s head.

Only then did Leeha realize. A fact that he had to do no matter how hard it was. He had a dinner appointment.

With a woman even!

Leeha finally realized the reason Shin Nara’s cold whisper and indifferent attitude.

‘Oops, we were supposed to eat together after the war! 2-on-2!’

He completely forgot about it and didn’t even mention it, so she couldn’t help but pout! Leeha suddenly felt his head pounding.

“What are you doing? Are you okay?”

“Oh, ah, well-”

“Okay- no, cough, anyway, I’ll tell you when the schedule is finalized, so select a place that has good food.”

Leeha made the mistake of not answering because she thought of Shin Nara for a moment.

Ram Hwayeon took it as a sign of approval and had already nodded her head. On top of that, Ram Hwajung looked at Leeha with a smiling face and a bright smile…….

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 295

				
 Mister-Canada

‘I’m going crazy. I think this is harder than when I was fighting against the Demon King’s Fragment.’

Leeha could not say no to them and fell into a dilemma as he quietly got out of Castle Dale.

“Haaa……. I wish I could make a living by just clearing the Black Bass quest.”

Leeha sighed even after earning an eye-popping amount of money. Although he had already saved hundreds of millions of won, it was still far from the cost of the surgery he needed.

‘No matter how good the reward is, it wouldn’t amount to 2 billion, and even if I get it, the surgery would not be done in a day or two.’

As his head became complicated with many things, he no longer had energy to be in Middle Earth. Leeha logged out after checking the remaining days until the non-public awarding.

Three days from now, the capital will hold a full-fledged non-public awarding.

‘Then I should meet Kijung and talk about it. Still, he boasted that he had been in a relationship a few times before, so he must be better at it than me, right?’

That is, if Kijung was telling the truth.

Leeha grabbed a pillow and groaned, then a sudden thought came to his mind. Why worry about simply meeting people? Whether it’s Shin Nara or the Ram sisters, he could just go see them!

‘Come to think of it, why am I worrying about this? Am I that shy about my legs? There’s nothing to be ashamed of!’

Clearly, he had such a mind at the beginning of the accident. The sadness of being suddenly crippled in the lower half, and other kinds of shame that came with it. However, while playing Middle Earth, Leeha’s confidence was restored to a large extent.

There was nothing lacking, from the belief that he could still make it, the expectation that he can get better, and realistically accumulating the cost for his treatment.

Then why was he worried? Would it have been the case if the person who asked him to meet was Biyemi, Tale, or even Jachung?

‘There’s no way. If Tale-nim or Biyemi-nim had asked to meet me, even if Jin Gonggong had asked, we would have met a hundred times over. Then…’

Why? And what did it mean to have such worries about Shin Nara and the Ram Sisters?

‘…… What is this feeling?’

Leeha suddenly felt his own emotions slow down. Something like an adolescent boy, it was natural after the accident, and it was a feeling that he had never felt before the accident.

————————————————————————————————————————–


“When? When is it? My perm is about to loosen, let’s go-”

“…… Did you hear me?”

“Of course, hyung! So, when are we going to eat with Shin Nara-nim and Bobae-nim?”

“I think I have been talking about the Ram sisters for about 20 minutes-”

“Yes, I heard they were coming to Korea. So when are we going to eat with Shin Nara-nim and Bobae-nim?”

“……It’s.”

“You have to tell me! So that I can prepare as well, hyung!”

Kijung asked Leeha. At first, he pretended to worry together with Leeha, but before he knew it, Kijung was only focusing on one thing.

‘I’m a fool for telling him, a fool!’

He didn’t mention emotions that he couldn’t understand, but he spoke passionately about the fact that the Ram sisters might come to Korea soon, and that they wanted to meet him, but it didn’t seem to reach Kijung’s ears.

Leeha begrudgingly went to the Royal Palace with Kijung. Aelstock already had a lot of users because of the experience penalty for the negative contribution users after the war, but today was even worse.

“I envy you. You were invited to the Royal Palace and will receive a reward, while I still have 13 more days of experience penalty.”

“13 days is nothing. Do you want to exchange with me? I still have 61 days.”

“Wow, that’s crazy, were you a spy?”

It was because it was the day the surrounding users were envious of, Fibiel’s National Awarding Ceremony. In accordance with Middle Earth’s special policy of opening the palace to all users like the opening ceremony, as well as officially allowing filming inside the palace, reporters, and casters from broadcasting stations also lined up around the palace.

“— thus the live broadcast- ah, now, the 9th place in contribution! Master Kay, the 9th rank player in Fibiel’s contribution, is entering the palace! Master Kay, can we ask for an interview for a moment! Master Kay-”

“Hello, I am from OGM! Are you Byulcho’s guild master! Master Kay!”

“We came first!”

“Not if we push the mic in first!”

The casters who were delivering the news started running toward Kijung with their microphones.


It was quite a frightening scene for Kijung to see the Korean and International broadcasting stations running toward him with glaring eyes.

“Uwaaak!! W-wait a moment!”

“Kek, good luck, Kijung-ah.”

Leeha quickly walked away from Kijung. In the war, many people made their appearance and names known, but not as much as Leeha.

His name might have been known, but only a few people remembered the sniper that operated alone. There were people who had seen his appearance at least once, but no one immediately recognized him because his appearance was different from when he wore the Brown Bear coat.

Therefore, Leeha, who was ranked first in terms of contribution, overtaking Granville, Fibiel’s commander-in-chief, was able to enter the Royal Palace leisurely.

“Leeha-ah! Everyone! There, Leeha is over there- Cough!”

Kijung tried to hold on to Leeha and put him in the spotlight, but he couldn’t because the microphone was thrust into his mouth. It was then that someone approached Leeha, who was walking around the platform in the palace garden, after his identity was confirmed.

“You look happy? Well, you did work hard.”

“Nara-ssi.”

Instead of her usual greeting, her slightly blunt attitude made Leeha feel sorry. Because he knew very well that disappointment is proportional to expectations.

“When shall we meet?”

Leeha smiled as he spoke to Nara, her eyes, which had a sulky expression, became rabbit-like.

“Oh…… you remembered…… are we doing that?”

“Did you think I forgot?! I will be having a meal with Nara-ssi. I just had a lot of things to do for a while. I really didn’t forget.”

Seeing her like that, Leeha worked hard as Kijung instructed him. Don’t make it obvious and lie! Tell her that you remembered it no matter what! With a smile, smile~

“……Well, I’m busy these days, so I don’t know if I’ll have time…. I’ll ask Bobae first. I don’t know if she will have time.”

Then she’ll try to put it off once, call! You can do it! In fact, it was obvious that she wasn’t actually upset, and he was doing it for nothing. Don’t forget to be considerate!

“Yes, of course. You can set a date when you’re free. When Nara-ssi is not busy.”

Leeha even smiled widely as he recalled Kijung’s advice, but he was skeptical as he spoke.


‘No, this works? Anyone would know that I forgot. I don’t know if Nara-ssi felt worse because I lied for no reason-’.

“Okay. Phew, I almost felt sad knowing that Leeha would forget again. Hehe.”

However, looking at Nara’s reaction, he had to accept Kijung’s advice. At least in conversations and relationships with women, Kijung was several levels of magnitude higher than Leeha.

“Go in now! Go and listen to the ceremony order and explanation, as it will start in a little while. I heard that His Majesty, the King, will confer the award to the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd contributors himself. Now, now, if our Leeha-ssi wants to look good, go and change into formal clothes. Everyone is already here!”

Returning to her usual bright and healthy expression, Nara personally guided and took Leeha into the palace.

“This is…… how it happened.”

He realized this for the past few days that he knew nothing about the heart of women. Leeha did not know what Shin Nara was thinking when she said “Our Leeha-ssi”.

—————————————————————————————————————————-

His Majesty the King is entering!

Kuuu —–!

At the loud sound that seemed to slam the floor, the users in the palace garden instantly became quiet.

Not only in the palace garden, but also outside the inner castle gate and on top of the wall of the palace, users gathered to watch the awarding ceremony. Unlike when the war broke out, the interest in ‘substantial compensation’ was bound to be greater.

Fibiel’s king sat on a platform in the garden.

The captain of the royal guard, the chief of mages Lotzac, and the leader of the Sacred Knights, who were usually not seen in public, showed a dignified attitude.

It was no exaggeration to say that all of the great pillars of Fibiel are gathered here.

In the VIP seats installed right next to the podium, the meritorious figures of this war were seated. NPCs, as well as users, knew that each and every one of them played a role that was no different from a hero who shone brightly during the war.

However, they couldn’t figure out why the user sitting in the first seat in the front row had his legs shaking.

“Ah, to sit in a place like this-”

“It’s only obvious for the first contributor, Ha Leeha-nim. You shouldn’t be flustered.”

“If you want to look so flustered on live broadcasts around the world, then so be it.”

“……Nice clothes.”

It was burdensome for Leeha, but the eldest daughter of the President of the Ram Long group and the representative user of Hwangryong had no way to know that. Leeha was so nervous that he couldn’t hear Ram Hwajung’s whispers.

If he included tens of thousands of eyes of nearby users and viewers of the broadcast, what did it mean that more than 10 million eyes are focusing on him?

He tried to put an end to his thoughts because he would start to feel dizzy thinking about the number, and Leeha glanced up at the platform.

‘Come to think of it, what did Lotzac do throughout the war? I thought the reason why the king believed Lotzac was to test something like loyalty during the war.’

He had not been seen throughout the war. Since he was the mage chief, Leeha thought that he would lead the mages and appear somewhere on the frontline, but Lotzac did not appear. Shin Nara said that he never left the capital.

‘How was he able to persuade the king?’

It was not possible to know everything about the palace. However, Leeha felt a clear sense of incongruity in the image of the old man.

“— So, his Highness promised to give adequate treatment to those who raised the status of our country by winning this war. From the 10th rank to the 4th rank, step onto the podium!”

It was a temporary truce until the conclusion of the peace treaty, but the NPCs considered it as ‘victory’.

After a lengthy speech, the awarding ceremony finally began.

10th in merit Shin Nara, 8th in merit Division Commander NPC, 7th in merit Kidd, 6th in merit Rush’s guild master Ron, 5th in merit Ram Hwayeon, 4th in merit Ram Hwajung.

Waaaaaa—–! Shin Nara!

Long live Shin Nara!

RUSH ! RUSH ! RUSH !

Kyaaaaak, Kidd-ssi! Kidd-sssssiiiiii一! Please look here!

Ram Hwayeon is so beautiful一!

Ram Hwajung is so cuuuuuute一! Loud cheers erupted toward the users who were already famous. To cheer for Rush’s guild master, rush’s guild members even dressed up in uniform and waved a flag. The Ram sisters, who had many fans due to their beauty, also cheered.

(To be continued…)
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“Wow…… so Kidd has fans too.”

There were even female fans chanting his name. As Leeha smiled and clapped for him, Kidd pulled his hat down in shame. Even on days like this, his female fans are attracted to his attitude of insisting on wearing a trench coat and a hat instead of wearing robes, along with his attitude of being indifferent. Do they think he’s chic or something? The crowd shouted Kidd’s name even stronger than before.

“Yeah, that’s normal. It’s natural to be embarrassed- hmm?”

Leeha thought it was fortunate that there was another person who was not used to this kind of place… Until he saw Kijung.

“Puhahaha, look at Byulcho’s guild master!”

“His left hand and left feet are moving together!”

“Are you a robot? Wahahah!”

The atmosphere around them brightened up at Master Kay’s movements. Tale, who stood nearby, let out a big sigh, and Biyemi covered his eyes.

“Ughh, Kay…”

“Kiskis, the total number of viewers worldwide will be at least five million..… I guess I’ll have to take off my guild cape for a while.”

At least Kijung was able to firmly imprint his image as he had an overwhelming talent that made even solemn seats into bright parties! The king rose from his throne and personally presented them with their rewards. There were items specially produced by the Royal Palace for their job, additional stat points, and gold coins.

While exchanging whispers with Kijung, Leeha identified the contents of the rewards. Apart from being able to change contributions into stats, getting additional stats was actually the greatest reward.

‘Oh dear. In other words, ‘honor’ is a reward. Well, for people like them, 10 stat points are great, but…. Isn’t it too little? Well, if I change the contribution to stats, it will also get additional stat points.’

Still, Leeha thought it was a little compared to what he had suffered. After finishing the awarding from 10th to 4th, the NPC shouted again at the place where they entered.

“3rd in merit is Pei Wu, 2nd in merit is John Edward Granville and 1st in merit is Ha Leeha, please move to the stage!”

Gulp, Leeha whose turn had finally come, calmed himself down and rose from his seat. It was a moment as tense as when he shot Crolang through the holes of the trolls’ bodies.

Pei Wu! Pei Wu!

Ooooh, look at that person, it’s Ha Leeha!

Doesn’t he look average?


“Someone use a scroll! How high is his level?”

“Kuhahaha, if you do something like that in the Royal Palace, your head will fly.”

The cheers for Pei Wu were quickly covered with curiosity for Leeha. When someone tried to use a scroll, a strong arm grabbed their hand. With a hearty laugh, and thick and hairy forearms, Leeha recognized him.

“Commander Burke?”

Heading to the stage where the king was, their eyes met for a moment, burke winked at Leeha and turned around.

“You guys! Be polite to old man Granville and Ha Leeha!”

“Don’t you have to keep quiet, captain?”

“Shut up! You take a seat as well! Cough, on behalf of the Fibiel navy, and all of Sailfish’s crew!

—Attention!”

Chachak-!

Naval Commander Burke and the navigator NPC raised their voices. Even among the users’ loud voices, their voices resounded.

“To the hero of Dike Beach —— Salute!”

Chak-!

The NPCs and users had unified movements. The users that belonged to Sailfish also had respect for Leeha.

They respected Leeha for his ridiculous strategies and tremendous skills, and those feelings were deeply embedded in their movements

Leeha lowered his head slightly, forcibly suppressing the tears that were about to burst. The king was not such a narrow-minded person that would be offended at the sight of people saluting in front of him. Rather, he had a happy expression on his face.

“Third rank, Pei Wu, kneel.”

“Yes, your majesty.”

When Pei Wu knelt down, the king stepped forward. Unlike before, the NPC aide held a small wooden board. What the king lifted was a medal, something that the 10th to 4th rank did not receive.

“The fact that you struggled while leading the invasion route against Minis, and the role you and your guild played throughout the war with Minis is highly appreciated.”


“Thank you very much, Your Majesty.”

“I award the Purple Heart Medal to Pei Wu, the third-ranked contributor. With this medal, you will gain the authority to choose one ite from the Royal Treasury.”

Wooooooow—–!

From 10th to 4th, they were given one item.

Middle Earth appropriately judged and randomly gifted them an item suitable for their job. However, this was different as they could personally choose an item. Users who realized the difference couldn’t help but be amazed.

“Second rank, John Edward Granville. As the commander-in-chief of this war, you have done your part well.”

“No, Your Majesty. Please punish me for not being able to carry out Your Majesty’s order to the end.”

The king smiled warmly at Granville’s words. Clearly, what he said from the beginning was to erase Minis and Kraven from the map. The headstrong Granville blamed himself when he brought up the words from that time.

“This is a special situation, so don’t worry about it. You have been my sword and shield, and are the pride of Fibiel.”

“Your Majesty…”

The king picked up another medal from the NPC aid. Unlike Pei Wu’s purple medal, it was silver-colored. It was a pretty familiar design.

“This Silver Star is awarded to John Edward Granville, the 2nd ranked contributor. You will also be given the authority to choose two items from the Royal Palace’s warehouse..”

Woooooow—-! Two!

But what will he do with two? No, if he gets two, what would the next person get? Granville raised both of his hands to receive the medal bestowed by the king. Now, the surprise of the users had turned into curiosity and anticipation. If third-ranked and 2nd-ranked were like this, what will the 1st-ranked contributor get?

“Kneel.”

“Yes, Your Majesty.”

Leeha naturally kneeled in front of the king. Even though he was so nervous when the 3rd and 2nd ranked were awarded. When his turn came, the tension disappeared and he felt at ease.

“Your amazing performance, regardless of military service, could even be heard throughout the capital. The commander-in-chief, naval commander, and army commanders have unilaterally praised you.”

“They overpraise me. I only carried out the missions according to the strategy.”

“That is the hardest thing for a soldier. There’s no need to be humble. Because you are Fibiel’s most outstanding citizen today. Stand up.”


As Leeha stood up, the king picked up the remaining medal from the NPC aide. It was a gold medal with two stars flashing from his hand.

“Ha Leeha, you showed the best performance and bravery in this war by performing more than what is expected of you, regardless of the threat to your life-”

The king lifted up the medal and attached it to Leeha’s clothes.

– as the King of Fibiel, I award you with this Medal of Honor.”

Gulp, even though the king had finished speaking, the users did not cheer yet. The Medal of Honor, or whatever, didn’t matter to the crowd. So what are the rewards going to be?

“As a reward, you will be given the right to choose three items from the Royal Treasury, and additionally-”

Woooooow—— Oh, wait, there’s something else!

The admiring users hurriedly lowered their voices. The king waited until the surroundings were sufficiently quiet. Leeha and the king were caught on one screen and broadcast to the whole world. As light reflected from the Medal of Honor in Leeha’s chest, the king opened his mouth again. It was only then that he understood why Ram Hwayeon had said that he might not need Castle Dale’s earnings any longer.

“-I will officially appoint you to a position where you can manage a city or castle that will be acquired after signing the peace treaty with Minis.”

The king’s voice spread throughout the palace. There was no reaction other than breathing. It took about 6 seconds for the people to understand what the king meant.

“No way?”

“Really? Did I understand it correctly?”

“He’s going to give him a castle?!”

“Waaaaaa! That’s nonsense! C-castle lord? Not even to a guild, but to an individual?”

Uwaaaaaaa——-!!!

Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha!

The explosive shouts and chanting for Leeha continued for a long time. It was a reward that made even the related party unable to come to his senses.

“Huh? What- what did he give me?”

A city or castle?

Leeha thought for a long time whether he heard it correctly. The actual ruler of Castle Dale was the Hwahong guild, and its guild master, Ram Hwayeon. Does that mean he was given that kind of authority? Really?

“Eong-aaaaaaaah!!!”

Leeha became sure when he saw Kijung’s reaction. He was the first person to scream and run out of the central garden of the Royal Palace, which had become noisy like a festival. With his eyes moistened, his stiff movements from before could no longer be seen, he expressed natural joy throughout his body.

“Kijung-ah!!”

The two cousins embraced each other. Strictly speaking, it was against the Royal Palace’s etiquette, but the king already anticipated it.

Boooo—— Boooom! Booom!

A loud congratulatory fanfare began to ring with the effect of the congratulatory magic.

“Oh my god! I didn’t believe it, but the information was really…”

“Nice, oppa.”

“It is only natural for a person like Ha Leeha to be treated this much.”

Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Pei Wu could not hide their surprise.

“What- What happened! Castle? Oh, oh, oh”

“Hut, even I, who hunted with him just a while ago, did not know of this.”

When asked by Shin Nara, who is much more excited than usual, Kidd secretly stressed his closeness with Leeha. As the rankers greeted Leeha with amazement and congratulations, the king added something more to the joyful crowd.

(To be continued…)
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“Today is the day to celebrate the heroes of our country. Eat all you want, and drink all you want!”

Useful festival foods started pouring out like a waterfall. Not only did they taste good, but they also had a practical buff effect. It was meant to celebrate the actual victory of the national war, but all the gathered users and viewers watching the broadcast knew. As the king said, it was a place to treat the heroes Fibiel, and among them, Ha Leeha, the first-ranked contributor and recipient of the Medal of Honor, drew attention from people around the world.

『Achievement: Medal of Honor – Fibiel(A+)』! You have been crowned the greatest war hero of Fibiel. Your name has been placed under the king, and you will be widely known throughout Fibiel and every corner of the continent. When the country and the continent are in a crisis, people will call out your name and pray. However, isn’t it right for other countries to be wary of Fibiel’s hero?

Reward: 18 stat points, intimacy with Fibiel’s NPCs +30%, continental Reputation +1,000, when contribution exceeds 3000 points, foreign countries and royalties(excluding Ezwen) will decrease intimacy by 10%

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Medal of Honor』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and 200% of the existing effect will be rewarded.

Effect: 36 Stat points, intimacy with Fibiel NPCs +60%, continental Reputation +2,000, when contribution exceeds 3000 points, foreign countries and royalties(excluding Ezwen) will decrease intimacy by 20%

*****

“Wow, amazing. That Ha Leeha guy will also get a city.”

“What city?”

Even while listening to the broadcast in real time, the user did not stop slashing did not stop, and the user next to him also indifferently and mechanically raised his shield and swung his sword. The orcs of the Sentinel Mountains were knocked down and beaten.

“The king said that he will be given a new city or castle as a reward.”

“Wow……. From Minis?”

“Yeah. It’s not finalized yet, but they will be drawing a new border when they sign the peace treaty. At that time, he will become the lord of one of the cities or castles.”

Even those who did not go to Aelstock knew what was happening in real-time. Most of the users were about to swear at the event, saying that the rewards were low and the penalties were huge, but when they saw Leeha’s reward, they couldn’t say anything. Middle Earth definitely gave an unconventional reward. It’s bad because the rich keep getting richer, and the poor keep getting poorer.

“That’s crazy, freaking awesome. When will we be able to get something like that?”

“We can barely catch an orc with a 2-person party, what are you talking about…?”

“Still! He’s not even Alexander and is a completely unknown user. We can become stars too if we are given the chance.”

“He must have been lucky. That’s right, if we’re lucky enough, we can also get first place in contribution, so there’s nothing we can’t do.”


There was a gap that made people sigh, but there were also those that gave people hope. Compared to the gap and status of the rankers, Leeha’s name seemed easier. Because it was easy(?) for an outsider to instill dreams in users, Leeha aroused complex emotions from the users. He gave hope and confidence, but also jealousy and envy.

“Shut up and let’s hunt. After we create a troll-hunting party, we will be able to level up in no time. One day-”

——Ohhhhhh—–.

The movement of one user, who was trying to draw the attention of an orc, stopped.

The shout that vibrated through the air from afar was definitely not something a normal monster could make. It could mean that the field boss of Sentinel Mountain, the Cyclops, had appeared.

“Amazing, it seems the Cyclops is out.”

“Here?”

However, the location was odd. The Cyclops usually appear a little deeper in the troll zone. A location where the number of trolls decreased and ogres start to appear in large numbers. The Cyclops respawning there was fairly common. In other words, the Cyclops’ cry should not be heard in the middle of the Sentinel Mountains, where trolls, let alone an ogre, did not even come out.

—Mwoaaaaaaaaa——!

Another cry was heard. The faces of the two users hardened a little. The sound was definitely louder and clearer than before. If it was loud enough that they knew it shouldn’t be far away.

“Isn’t it strange?”

“Should we go and check?”

“No, no, no. I feel like we might die if we check. Let’s go. The Cyclops is big. I don’t like the feeling that I would die like a fly.”

This was the reason why Middle Earth had a lower percentage of adventurers compared to other games. It was the sense of intimidation from large monsters. There were a lot of users who thought that it was not real but could not overcome the sense of realism.

“Are you stupid? What are you going to do after scrolling? If it feels like we have a chance, let’s form a raid team. Even if we die one by one, it should give us more experience than a few orcs. You say you want to be like Ha Leeha, but you’re afraid of a cyclops?”

“Fuck you. Let’s go.”

And with his friend’s provocation, the nerve-wracking fear he felt disappeared.

Along with the two of them, the surrounding users also quietly moved. The ants, expecting a pile of rice cakes to fall, instinctively began to clump together. Two people became four, then ten, then fifteen, while climbing up the Sentinel Mountains.

_Uwoooooooh — Uwoooooooh!

“The strange scream sounded like it came twice.”


“It must have echoed. Have you seen two field bosses appear at once?”

“I heard it, too. Isn’t there something strange.…?”

The users mumbled. Field Bosses have unique names. They were so-called ‘named’ monsters. In other words, they respawn when they die, but only if they die. There were no cases where two monsters with the same name appeared at the same time.

Uwooooooh, uwooooooh-! Step, step! “Oh, ohh, what, what is happening?”

However, it was different from usual. When they arrived at the troll zone while going through the mountain road, what they saw was not the skills of the users being cast. It was the gray corpses of users strewn about. The number exceeded one hundred. There were so many trolls that the number of corpses seemed few.

“W-why are there so many trolls? Besides, isn’t their color strange?”

“Ou-ssi, let’s just go. We came here, but with this many-”

“Waah, what is that?”

“Cyclops! C-Cyclops Qui一一” The players who came from the orc region took a step back. The number of trolls, which were far more numerous than usual, was surprising, but the number of eyes knocking down trees was a nightmare.

“Three, three?! There are three cyclops!”

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, Quiquero has appeared.』

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, cleethio has appeared.』

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, mimas has appeared.』

『All large monsters in the Sentinel Mountains are 30% stronger.』

“Why are there three of them?!”

“It is not the time to say that!! Quick, scroll- scro-”

“No way, no.”

When he was about to take out a scroll, a light purple film was created surrounding them. What surprised them more than the curtain blocking space movement was the location of the man that had just arrived. Someone stood behind the users where no one was standing before.

“What, who are you-”

“It would be a problem if rumors spread.”


Sook- before the user could finish speaking, he swung his staff. With just one attack, the user’s body split in half. At that moment, the gathered users knew. The fact that they would not be able to beat those ‘monsters’ with their skills. And the fact that something will start from the Sentinel Mountains.

“N-No way…”

The most unfortunate thing was the fact that this could not be immediately spread. They would die before they could whisper, and it will take some time before they could reconnect again after getting a forced log out. The Internet Community will not have enough power to spread the news.

“Twe.”

As if he knew all of that Bluebeard, Count Le, slaughtered the low-level users. There was not even a wrinkle in his suit, and not a drop on his beard. Meanwhile, the Cyclops’ roar continued. Every time they roared, a cyclops appeared one after another from somewhere. According to the number, new ogres also appeared and the trolls were called out as if they were reproducing on the spot.

“Now, at this level, I guess it’s okay here. I’ll need another hour or two…. This is the only way to get it.”

Bluebeard sighed and shook his head. Behind him, large monsters roared endlessly. Their instinctive anger toward humans was about to spill out.

****

“Then Bluebeard-”

“He is on the move, Your Holiness. My students said that they encountered Bluebeard who came to Crolang in the northern frozen land.”

“Already…… He’s moving already.”

Pope Gaius IV touched his forehead. Browless gave the Pope a moment before opening his mouth again.

“Fortunately, my students killed Crolang, but……. The descendants of the aristocratic demonic corps and large monsters of the Second Human-Demon War still remain. If Bluebeard wants to raise them up, the continent…”

“Will get caught up in a war. It is not at the level of just a skirmish, but a fight for the survival of humanity… there will be a third Human-Demon War.”

“Yes.”

The Pope of the Holy City Ezwen fell silent.

(To be continued…)
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The Pope and his aides did not speak. There was only one user among the people present, and that user was also quietly observing the situation.

“Still, I don’t know if it’s okay to hope a little since they were able to kill Crolang. Did you say they were your students, Browless?”

At the Pope’s words, Browless’ expression softened slightly.

“That’s right. They are the ones who have followed my, Brown’s…… and Elizabeth’s footsteps. They still lack a lot, but-”

“Kidd, Luger, and Ha Leeha-ssi are not lacking skills. In terms of personality, I will admit that they are missing some screws somewhere.”

“Hmmm? How do you……?”

Browless looked at the user with a surprised expression.

“It’s because I have met all three of them. Nice to meet you, my name is Fernand.”

The most famous user of Ezwen, and the only user in the Vatican, replied with a grin.

“Fernand Magalias! He is the adventurer with the nickname Pioneering King.”

“Ha! You know him? Hmm, hmm, his fame rose again not too long ago, and he is still definitely famous now.”

When Browless recognized him, fernand was delighted. He was a citizen of Ezwen who had nothing to do with the war, and he explored unexplored territories even during the national war. There were several areas and ruins that he had pioneered and excavated, and his reputation continued to rise.

“We cannot waste any more time if Bluebeard has already moved. We must prevent him from waking the other large races up and giving them mana to turn them into demon nobles.”

The pope interjected into Browless and Fernand’s conversation.

“You’re right, Your Holiness. However, tracking a Demon King’s Fragment is never easy. Even a top tracker-”

“The top trackers can’t, but the number one tracker can.”

The Pope put his hand on Fernand’s shoulder. Fernand drew the sign of the cross and bowed his head toward the Pope.

“The best adventurer and tracker on the continent is here. Bluebeard has the pure power of a Demon King’s Fragment, and as long as he uses it, he is bound to leave a trace.”

“And if there are any traces, it’s not too difficult for us to chase after him. Chasing after a living being is better than finding artifacts from 500 years ago.”


Fernand took out a small magnifying glass from his pocket and held it while expressing his confidence.

“Indeed…”

“Browless, convince the king. It’s good to negotiate borders and occupy cities for Fibiel’s interest, but if the peace treaty isn’t signed, the fire of war between Fibiel and Minis can rekindle at any time. And in order to focus on Bluebeard and the Fragments of the Demon King, we must finish the war quickly.”

“I understand. I will try my best.”

Fibiel and Minis are on a temporary truce at the moment. It was a state where they could fight with each other before the peace treaty was signed. With the Pope’s warning, there won’t be an all-out war, but small skirmishes and local battles can recur at any time.

“We must move first. I will talk to Minis, so please do your best in Fibiel.”

“Yes, Your Holiness.”

Baaaang-!

The moment Browless lowered his head, the door to the Vatican was violently thrown open. Fernand, who was surprised, grabbed the whip that was wrapped around his waist.

“Urgent- urgent report!”

“What is it?”

“Pardon, haaa haaa, pardon the rudeness, Your Holiness.”

The man who appeared to be a messenger came running in front of the Pope and knelt, he was out of breath. The Pope touched the man’s shoulder with a benevolent smile.

“It’s okay, calm down and tell me.”

“A monster believed to be a Demon King’s Fragment has appeared in the Sentinel Mountains!”

The messenger closed his eyes and reported what he heard.

The expression of the Pope, as well as Browless and Fernand, changed rapidly. Browless was the first to speak before the Pope could.

“A Demon King’s Fragment?! Is that really true? Bluebeard, Count Le, is in the Sentinel Mountain?”

“I don’t know if he is. However, it is said that there was a large-scale appearance of monsters in the Sentinel Mountains.”

“Isn’t the Sentinel Mountains originally a place with a lot of monsters? There’s an orc and ogre colony-”


“T-that’s right- that’s the situation I have heard about. This is the urgent report from Berfort Village in Fibiel. Afterward, we even received news that Berfort’s personnel had participated to subdue monsters and defeat Bluebeard.”

If it really was Bluebeard, a small number of people would not be able to stop him. Rather, it will only increase the damage! Upon hearing the messenger’s report, Browless’ expression distorted.

“Your Holiness!”

“Go back, Browless. And Fernand, you go as well. There must be some trace.”

“Understood, let’s go, Browless-nim.”

Fernand and Browless moved immediately.

Toward Berfort, a village at the foot of the Sentinel Mountains in the direction of Fibiel.

***

“Huuuu…. Now I’m a bit free.”

“I didn’t know it would be so hard just to say hello to you.”

“Sorry. If it wasn’t for Kijung, I wouldn’t have known who was who.”

Leeha and Kijung, still in formal attire, took a breather with champagne glasses. In the Royal Garden, where countless users and NPCs gathered together as if it was truly a festival, there were, of course, a lot of people who wanted to say hello or even take a picture with Leeha, who was the main character of the day.

At least Kijung, who had been playing Middle Earth for a long time, helped Leeha by distinguishing who was who, what role they played, and whether they were users or NPCs.

“Hu, thank you. We can’t show how absent-minded Fibiel’s hero is.”

“W-When did I do that? Not to that extent.”

“Kilkil, is that so?”

His cousin laughed at him. As Kijung said, Leeha, who was Fibiel’s hero, felt a sense of accomplishment that made his heartache. He felt confident that he could do it, with the pride of having done it running down his spine.

“Anyway, your reward isn’t very good.”

“Reward?”

“They said there were no other achievements from 4th to 10th. Isn’t it too much that you only get stats and gold.”


There was one thing that Leeha felt regretful about. That the comrades he suffered together with, did not receive sufficient compensation. There were also Tale and Biyemi, who were not even listed as contributors at all, but he also thought that Kijung, who had struggled and worked hard to lead them, seemed to be treated too poorly.

“It can’t be helped… Perhaps the achievement came from those medals. Still, the reputation of Byulcho Guild rose tremendously. We were originally quite famous, but now, wouldn’t this really make our guild one of Fibiel’s top guilds? That’s enough for me-”

“No, no way.”

And Leeha knew how to take care of the people around him.

“If not, what will hyung do?”

“I will get you an item.”

“Huh?”

“I could get three items from the palace using this medal.”

“Y-You’re giving me one of them?”

Kijung’s eyes widened However, he immediately managed his facial expression and waved his hands.

“No, it’s fine.”

“Oh? Don’t you want me to give you one?”

“You take care of yourself. I would prefer it if you got stronger and more famous.”

“Kijung-ah…”

Leeha was rather surprised. Eoh-ah!! You’re the best!! Kijung, who He thought would say those things, turned down the gift. However, it was the same as Leeha underestimating Kijung.

Although he had a dog-like personality that usually followed Leeha, he was definitely a Semi-Ranker level expert of Middle Earth. He was a man with the mindset of a guild master.

“Because if hyung gets really strong, I could just take it easy and get some alms.”

“Huh? This jerk… is your brain working?”

“Hyung, I’m a business major, right?”

Leeha also smiled as he saw Kijung joking around until the end because he was embarrassed to show his respect for his older cousin.

At least for today, he wanted Leeha to enjoy it without any worries. However, Middle Earth wasn’t a game that allowed people to relax.

A man in a coat wearing a hat approached Leeha and Kijung, who were avoiding people in the corner of the palace.

“Have you been contacted?”

“Oh, Kidd-ssi. Come over and have a drink. It’s non-alcoholic champagne, but it tastes pretty good-”

“A notification just popped up.”

“Huh? Notification? From whom?”

Maybe because he was the only person who participated in the awarding ceremony without formal clothes, but he had already pulled out his revolver and was loading rounds.

“Headmaster Browless is calling everyone together. Luger has already arrived in the Sentinel Mountains.”

“Huh? Why didn’t it-”

Before he could finish speaking, a notification window popped up for Leeha as well. A simple notification was different from a quest.

Leeha knew that if he went to an NPC after receiving this notification, he would receive a certain quest. One day, when he was doing a quest to wait, he got a call from Browless this way.

“Berfort…… Isn’t that the village on the base of the Sentinel Mountains?”

“The director, who had been to Ezwen, immediately went to the Sentinel Mountains and called the three of us……. Do you understand what that means?

“It has something to do with Bluebeard.”

“If you know, let’s go.”

Kidd took out a scroll. Standing next to him, Kijung hurriedly grabbed Leeha.

“W-wait, hyung?! Are you just going to leave?”

“Yes. I have to go. It must be a quest related to the 3rd Human-Demon war. Shouldn’t we get information that we could use later? I’ll be going then, Kijung-ah! Clean after yourself!”

“W-what about Shin Nara-ssi? The Ram sisters were also looking for hyung earlier!”

“So, you have to wrap up well.”

“How could I wrap up-”

“I will go first.”

While Leeha and Kijung were bickering, Kidd tore the scroll. His body disappeared in an instant.

“W-wait, Kidd! Hey, I haven’t saved Berfort, so let’s go together. Then I’ll really go, Kijung-ah!”

Then using a return scroll, he headed to the vicinity of the warp gate in Aelstock, and Kijung, remaining in his seat, sighed with a gloomy face.

“Haaa……. I’d rather catch monsters, how should I deal with those three women……!”

Shin Nara, Ram Hwayeon, and Ram Hwajung.

What should he say when the three women pounce at him and ask where and what happened to Leeha? Kijung shook his head.

(To be continued…)
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Berfort was empty unlike usual. Remembering that it was a village always crowded with users, Leeha was in a bit of a hurry.

“Director-nim!”

“Leeha-kun.”

“You’re late, you idiot.”

Browless and Luger greeted Leeha with friendly expressions.

Leeha wanted to raise his middle finger toward Luger but held it in because the user next to Browless caught his eye.

“Fernand-nim?”

“Ha Leeha-nim. Long time no see.”

“Oh, how did you get-”

“I met Browless-nim at the Ezwen Papacy. I came because of the Pope’s request.”

It was only then that Leeha remembered Fernand’s country. He belonged to Ezwen and had the confidence of the Pope through discovering various ruins and unexplored lands, would have known quite a bit of information related to Bluebeard.

“I’m afraid we’ll have to talk later. Can you prepare right away?”

“Yes, I understand.”

Leeha inserted a magazine into Black Bass. Click-! At the same time, a fanfare rang, and a quest window appeared in front of his eyes.

『The Ghost Clan Leader ‘Bluebeard’ Count Le – 1』 Explanation: “You have seen him before when you dealt with ‘Crolang’. He has the ability to strengthen large monsters. What you have to do now is to repel the monsters in Sentinel Mountain. And you have to find the traces of Bluebeard.”

The large monsters in Sentinel Mountains are very active. Because they have been touched by Bluebeard’s magic, the damage would be severe once they come down to the village. You have to kill them before they come down.

Description: Kill all the demons in the Sentinel Mountains

Reward: The Ghost Clan Leader ‘Bluebeard’ Count Le-2

Failure conditions: If the ghost clan arrives at Berfort, the death of Browless


Penalty for failure: Achievement – ‘The Beginning of the Fall’

– Do you accept?

‘Waaa, what is this?’

It wasn’t just Leeha. Kidd let out a groan and Luger frowned. The content of the quest itself seemed largely unremarkable. Judging from the description and condition for failure, it was clear that Browless would go together with them to the Sentinel Mountains.

‘But why is the achievement for failure ‘The Beginning of the Fall’! Wasn’t this over?’

Just with the name, it was an ominous penalty for failure. Compared to the high penalty for failure, the reward was only a progression through the chain quest. Blaming Middle Earth’s reward system, which still made users gasp, Leeha pressed the accept button.

“Kidd! Luger! Do you still remember the last achievement?”

“The Enemy of the Northern Trolls?”

“Don’t drag me down, you idiots.”

The only possibility was the achievement they received when they defeated Crolang.

The three of them have additional attack power against large monsters. There was also some additional damage from the Three Musketeers’ achievement, but Browless was with them. What kind of monsters would dare to approach?

“Let’s go, director-nim.”

“Okay. Fernand-nim will come as well.”

“Yes. I will carefully follow behind.”

Fernand also took out his whip and held it. For the first time, they formed a five-person party on a quest with an NPC.

‘But if the party is like this, it feels like I am losing out because I am the one with the lowest level and I can’t share the experience. Can the quest be completed with the Three Musketeers’ achievement? I need an explanation to figure it out.’

Even in the midst of that, Leeha grumbled. The party of 5 left Berfort and slowly headed toward the base of the Sentinel Mountains.

“Is this the Sentinel Mountains?”

“Did Bluebeard change the terrain when he appeared…?”

“Wow, it looks like an unexplored land.”


Walking forward cautiously, Leeha, Kidd, and Fernand spoke one at a time.

Originally, the mountain did not have thick foliage, but now it felt completely different. Like the cursed land of the Marching Plains, the land darkened, with twisted trees revealing only thin and bizarre branches that made the atmosphere bleak, and the frightening roars of monsters could be heard. The Sentinel Mountains were no longer a hunting ground for Low-to-Mid-level users. The terrain was in such a state that the word cursed fit it perfectly.

“It’s not just about changing the terrain. Bluebeard’s energy must have changed all the monsters into demon nobles.”

“Demon nobles? What the hell is that?”

“It is bullshit that Bluebeard spat out. If normal monsters are commoners, the monsters touched by his energy are like nobles. That guy calls himself a count, so what can we say?”

“Huh, it seems like a joke concept. What kind of joke-”

“Everyone thought it was a joke. However, you wouldn’t be able to laugh if you knew how many large monsters were touched by Bluebeard’s energy, and how many humans were slaughtered by those demon nobles during the 2nd Human-Demon war. Even if the name is funny, the threat is real.”

Leeha tried to lighten the mood. But Browless was rather nervous about the title noble demons.

‘We have to concentrate. What will happen if we don’t pay attention to Browless?’

It was only then that Leeha was able to clear his mind. It was true that he had caught Crolang, and knew the skills of his outstanding colleagues, Kidd and Luger, so he thought it was a little easy because they were on a quest with Browless. However, the fact that he noticed early on that it was a trap meant that he was quite adapted to Middle Earth.

‘The first failure condition was when the noble demons reach Berfort. In other words, not a single one should be left alive. We have to find the hidden ones and kill them, not just the visible ones.’

And the second condition was Browless’ death. This was Browless, an NPC and director of the Musket Academy. It meant that he would be much stronger than most users. However, how much stronger?

‘He was able to do rapid fire using the Black Bass before. However, it is different when catching monsters. It is not possible to give the penalty of death to someone who is not at risk of dying.’

What did it mean when the condition for failure is his death? It meant that Browless could die during the quest. Leeha focused on that point. After crossing the base and reaching the middle of the mountain, they encountered the first monster.

“Gwaru- Cha-!”

“Troll? Do trolls appear here? Oh, besides, isn’t the color strange? Why did you sell your green skin to have gray skin?”

Fernand made rabbit eyes and pointed at the troll. The others did not open their mouths.

“Can it be treated as a new species of monster? Then I can get a little bit of discovery experience-”

Baaaaang—- Ba一Baaa一aang Boom——-!

Instead of their mouths, what opened was their muzzles.


 “-Uwaaaaaa?!”

Fernand covered his ears and took a step back. He was about to trip over a rock but Browless grabbed and stopped him.

“Are you okay?”

“Oh, ah, yes. Ahh, these two what?”

“Ah…… no.”

Browless smiled benevolently. Fernand knew the skills of the three people, but the Three Musketeers then and now were different.

“Ah, fernand-nim, what did you say about discovery experience?”

“Ah, yes.”

“About that……. Not a single piece of the corpse is left, is it still possible to find something with that?”

Leeha pointed at the troll with an apologetic expression. No, he pointed at where the troll was.

There were only traces of there being a monster in the place where Leeha, Kidd, and Luger’s bullets passed.

“Ho…… Ho……”

A piece of gray skin and the monster’s blood splattered like paint. The unrealistic cruelty, like a B-grade movie, did not even make them think it was gross.

“Let’s go.”

Yes, sir!

At Browless’ words, the Three Musketeers reloaded and climbed the mountain again.

Fernand looked at the three people alternately, unable to escape from the culture shock.

‘What is with these people……!’

Another spark of hope was kindled in his heart. It was the moment when he thought that the promise to meet Leeha became firmer.

“The corpse…”

“Looking at the items, it seems that they are level 120 or higher.”

“It is natural that idiots who attack without knowing their enemy’s strength would die.”

Human corpses were lined up in front of Leeha, Kidd, and Luger. The corpses of users who had been hunting in Berfort were scattered all over the place.

“Did you say Bluebeard? There’s no trace of such a monster yet.”

“Hmmm, we must go higher. Be careful.”

“Yes, I will stay behind you.”

At Browless’ words, fernand closed his magnifying glass and stood behind him. They were not far from where the first troll came out. Everyone knew that monsters would appear from time to time sooner or later.

“I will lead the way.”

“Either way. Kidd will go second, right?”

“Wouldn’t 『Crimson Gecko』 cry if it fell behind 『Black Bass』?”

The Three Musketeers naturally took their positions.

『Pierce』 Luger took the lead, 『Rapid fire』 Kidd right behind him, and 『Bullseye』 Leeha from a short distance away.

After some time had passed before Browless and Fernand moved to the formation behind them, a group of trolls finally began to appear.

The spot where the orc settlement should have been has already been occupied by the gray trolls. There were over a hundred of them. Leeha gulped and asked Browless.

“Director-nim, are those noble demons as well?”

Did they have to catch that many? Leeha hope that there would only be a few monsters considered demon nobles, but Browless nodded against Leeha’s expectations.

“That’s right. Normally, we would have to take a detour and go undetected but-”

“There’s no need for that. I’ll take care of everything.”

Click-!

“Oh boy? At times like this-”

“Gwaruruk?! ”

“Aru- Cha-！”

The trolls who were playing kick with a human corpse raised their heads. Leeha tried to plan a thorough operation because he didn’t know what else would be there, besides the concentrated pressure of thousands of troll eyes, but Luger didn’t.

“This is my strategy. 『Panzer Shrek』!

Baaaaaaang——!

An ironclad grenade bullet, which Leeha had experienced before, was fired first. A huge shell ripped through the troll’s stomach and exploded. Trolls began to run wild with the huge attack that not only had penetration but also explosive power.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 300

				
 “Even if they are strengthened to become demon nobles, they are still at the same level as the northern trolls. Even with that, the coward is still aiming for the head from behind.”

Luger smirked at Leeha and immediately reloaded. With the first shot, he had already estimated the enemy’s level. When it came to combat and fighting, Luger was certainly a master. ButLeeha was annoyed that he was also a master at getting on people’s nerves.

“I thought I was used to it, but I was wrong. He really has a sharp tongue. Let’s go, Kidd.”

『Bullet Storm』 is already prepared.”

Leeha pulled his trigger and Kidd danced with his revolvers. Because they had already fought against the northern trolls, they did not shrink back from the number. The quest condition, which was different from the Crolang quest, was also the reason why they could move without feeling any pressure. Each time the Three Musketeers’ muzzles fired, the number of trolls fell by at least 2 and at most 10. Fernand’s jaw dropped, and he didn’t know what to do but open his mouth.

‘No way……. I knew the three of them had skills, but-’

Luger used his skills. And the trolls exploded without being able to react.

‘With that level of power, I can believe the fact that he fought Alexander.’

Kidd started panning and alternating guns. By the time a single gunfire ended, the surrounding trolls had turned already into pockmarked trolls.

‘Shin Nara level? No, shouldn’t his attack power be considered more than that? Could her rapier move that fast?’

Leeha quietly looked around, aimed, and pulled the trigger. It was a place where more than 300 monsters had gathered, but none of them was able to escape. Because Leeha only shot those who were running in the opposite direction.

‘His accuracy is the same as during the Bone Drake seeing that only the heads of the fleeing trolls explode- but it seems his aiming speed has doubled!’

The Three Musketeers did not even allow Fernand to admire them. The number of trolls rapidly decreased in front of overwhelming skills that did not even consider the difference in quantity.

“Uwooooo-!”

“Keooooo-ok!”

Kuuung- Kuuung-.

By the time the number of trolls had decreased to 30%, the sound of huge footsteps that shook the ground was heard.

“Ogre! There’s an ogre! T-Those guys appear to have turned into demon nobles as well!”

The number of ogres descending the mountain while knocking down trees was close to a hundred. There were still about a hundred trolls left, and there were a hundred ogres that appeared. They were even stronger than average ogres!

‘This is not a normal quest. Was it actually made with failure in mind? Or was the real purpose of the quest for me to find traces of Bluebeard first and get out of here?’


Fernand was nervous. He roughly heard what kind of quest the Three Musketeers received. He was given a different quest from that. It was a quest to find traces of Bluebeard, which was directly ordered by the Pope. He thought there would be time to spare, but looking at the number of monsters, it was never like that. Rather, it was a quest that was more like a time attack. It made him wonder if his real purpose was to find traces of Bluebeard before they died and get out of the Sentinel Mountains. That was from Fernand’s point of view. But what about the Three Musketeers?

“They are big idiots.”

“Interesting.”

“You wouldn’t miss it if they are that big, right? The numbers are just right…… Thank God.”

Luger, Kidd, and Leeha’s muzzles fired again.

Kidd focused on the trolls, and Luger slowed the ogres down by shooting them at their shin bone.

Kuooook-!

Leeha’s bullet flew into those who fell down screaming.

They did not exchange words in particular, and their movements were not connected in any way. However, the three people, who had a good understanding of each other’s weapon ranges and characteristics, were able to launch a naturally lined attack.

“Ho…”

Fernand was ashamed of himself for trying to figure out the hidden purpose of the quest.

“……It doesn’t seem like such a quest. It must have really been a leisurely quest to find traces. Yes, it’s relaxing and leisurely.”

None of the three will survive if they get caught by the ogres. Their limbs will be torn off in a brutal fashion and get logged out in an instant. That was if the ogres could touch them. The ogres became corpses a long way from the Three Musketeers, unable to properly show their strength.

“Leeha-kun, are there any monsters that have fled down?”

“There are none, director-nim. At least none got through and went to Berfort through this side.”

“I’m glad.”

While the other two focused on hunting, Leeha focused on the ‘quest’. The moment even one monster reached Berfort, the quest would fail, and of course, he had to search thoroughly.

‘It would have been hard if I only had my bare eyes. I’m glad I have mana clairvoyance.’

Most importantly, it was also possible because he was pretty good at searching and observing. Leeha’s observation and know-how sufficiently accumulated during the war when he was trying to find the keystones while trying to avoid being ambushed by Midnight Circus.

“Do you really mean that these bastards slaughtered humans during the 2nd Human-Demon war?”


They certainly did.

There was a certain strengthening aspect to Bluebeard’s mana, but it was embarrassing to even call these monsters strong.

Instead of slaughtering humans, the number of monsters the Three Musketeers had slaughtered exceeded several hundred. Browless smiled at Luger. It was a smile filled with pride.

“Hut, don’t be so dismissive, Luger-kun. Demon nobles become stronger when they have a commander, you know that since you have met Crolang.”

“The director is right. Even in the northern troll village, Luger-”

“Shut up.”

Luger frowned when Leeha quickly took Browless’ side. Luger was ashamed for not being able to kill Crolang with his strongest skill. There was no way Leeha could have missed that point.

“Ugh. Even then, if it wasn’t for me, you couldn’t have caught it. Our quest almost failed. Isn’t that right, Kidd?”

“It’s all because of my skill that the two of you were able to be together.”

They did not want to lose in the battle of words against each other. Hearing the Three Musketeers’ friendly and unfamiliar conversation, fernand tilted his head. He couldn’t figure out the relationship between the three people.

“Shh. Everyone come here now.”

When Browless spoke, the three of them, who had just been giggling and playing around, stopped their actions. Seeing that instant change in attitude, fernand admired them more.

After catching all the trolls and ogres, they approached the summit of the sentinel mountains.

Normally, this was a place where trolls and ogres would start appearing little by little. So, it was obvious what would happen here.

—uwoooooo 一ukwoooooo!

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, Quiquero has appeared.』

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, cleethio has appeared.』

『All large monsters in the Sentinel Mountains are 30% stronger.』

“It’s finally here. As for Quiquero, I have caught it once before. Isn’t it a field boss?”

“I think they are demon nobles as well. The cyclops have horns.”


Fernand continued Leeha’s murmur.

How many field bosses? Is that how noble demons work?

But it was a question no one could easily answer. In a situation where even Browless was reluctant to say anything, it was the two of them who stepped forward.

“I will catch it.”

“Don’t be too greedy. There’s one more.”

Looking at Luger and Kidd, Leeha slowly laid down. Leeha and Luger were able to one-shot the ogres, but what about the field bosses?

‘They’re almost 10 meters tall, and the fact that they are field bosses- and if they gained a demon noble’s power through Bluebeard, they could rival Crolang. I may not be able to defeat it in one shot if I shoot it in a different part.’

In addition, the horn’s use was unknown.

If so, they need to pinpoint the weakness accurately. If Luger’s bullet did not kill it, Leeha planned to fire at Quiquero’s eyes immediately.

“Human- It smells like humans!”

“Count-nim’s – gift, human- meat!”

The two cyclops turned with their eyes thumping. Like a machine, Luger raised his gun and used his skills.

“Panzer Faus-”

Did they notice Luger’s skill? Light flashed from the heads of the two cyclops.

“-t.”

Baaaaaaang—-!

Shells shot through the air. As expected, Luger’s bullet had explosive power, but there was no target to hit and there was no target to explode.

 “ Hmmmm?”

“Kuhahaha- hahaha-!”

“This!” Piiiat- Luger flung his body to the side, and the Cyclops’ stick hit the place where he was standing just before. Whooops-!

The attack would have crushed his body if he reacted slowly.

‘Damn it….. Can it use magic?!’

Kidd, who was standing behind Luger, also rolled forward. It was because another cyclops appeared behind Kidd and hit him with a club.

Poooook-!

“Blink……?”

“I was wondering if that was the case. They’re not just demon nobles, they are commander-level monsters of the demon corpse created by Bluebeard! They are on par with Crolang, Luger-kun! Kidd-kun!”

Browless raised his voice, touching his forehead.

The cyclops who were attacking Luger and Kidd discovered Browless, Leeha and Fernand.

“Human-! There are more humans!”

“It’s a party, a festival again!”

Light flashed from the head of one of the cyclops again. And then……. A bolt of lightning shot into the sky.

“What is that?”

“It means it’s starting now.”

At Leeha’s question, Browless gulped nervously for the first time.

After a while, the light flickered three times from a place far away. Every time the light flashed, there were figures that magically filled the place.

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, mimas has appeared.』

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, Prega has appeared.』

『The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, hekaton has appeared.』

『All large monsters in the Sentinel Mountains are 30% stronger.』

“……It’s similar to Crolang-”

“-do you want the three of us to kill five field bosses?”

“I will kill them all. Bastards. How dare you avoid my skill.”

In the meantime, Leeha shook his head for a moment as he saw Luger, who was losing his temper for some reason.

“Dodge!!!”

At the same time as Browless’ cry, the foreheads of the five cyclops began to flash.

(To be continued…)
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“Uwoooooo!”

Leeha was not able to stand still and wait in such a situation. The fact that the newly appeared cyclops stood still while using magic was no different from asking to be killed.

“Panzer Faust”

Bang——!

Luger, who was firmly heated, fired another cannon shot, but only rocks were destroyed. The Cyclops’ magic casting was much faster than the Three Musketeers thought. It was an evasive maneuver that mages skilled in combat could do. If it was in a normal situation Leeha would have been left making fun of Luger, but they were in an urgent situation.

“Damn it! What is that? They are not on the level of Crolang, they appear to be stronger than Crolang!”

“At least he didn’t use magic!”

Leeha and Kidd’s bodies flew once again. A huge rock flew towards the spot they were just before.

Boooom!

Boulders the size of trucks flew in at a breakneck speed and crashed down. If they collided with each other, they would have enough destructive power to not leave any trace.

“Kyahahaha-! Grilled humans, barbecue!”

“Don’t be too conceited!”

New energy gathered in the horn of one of the cyclops. Kidd didn’t miss that chance. Befitting of the title 『Rapid fire』, his panning fired once more. Six bullets were fired within a second, all of them flew precisely towards the cyclops’ eye but failed to reach them.

“Kuwaaaaaaa-!”

It only dug into the flesh covering the cyclops’ eye with a puk, puk sound. Luger’s muzzle pointed toward the hands covering the eyes.

“You’re useful sometimes, cowboy.”

“Don’t pretend you’re cool, just hit it quick-”

Luger pulled the trigger with a light smile.

Baaaaaang—!


The aftereffect was so strong that Kidd, and Leeha next to him flinched, but unfortunately, the shell did not hit either. The horn of the cyclops flashed, and the giant figure disappeared in an instant.

“No way! It could cast magic with its eyes covered? How does it read the timing?”

Leeha thought its more ridiculous than the shivering Luger. They knew how ridiculous it was because the three people were experts in the shooting. Just now, its timing was perfect. The perfect gap between action and inaction, that was where the shell went to!

“Does that mean it was from reflex?”

The best result they could get was Kidd’s bullet hitting their marks. The reaction of the noble demos was beyond imagination.

“Kuwoooooh-!”

“Dodge!”

The follow-up attacks, which did not even give them a chance to be surprised, spurred the three of them apart again.

Puk-! The dust rose again.

‘Cough, is this Bluebeard’s strengthening power? It’s so different from when I saw him with Crolang!’

Crolang was definitely a field boss-level monster. In addition to strengthening abilities for the northern trolls under his command, it also had multiple complex buffs. He even had the strength to ride an unknown creature. It was powerful and surprising but, it had not deviated from the monsters he knew. But what about them?

“A lich’s magical response inside a cyclops’ body……. Now I know the horrors of the 2nd Human-Demon war.”

“Yes, that’s exactly what Kidd said. If there were thousands of them, it be strange if humans did not go extinct.”

Leeha lifted the Black Bass and aimed at the Cyclops. Of course, his main target is its ‘eye’.

Penetrating it perfectly would be great, but its eye was bigger and easier to aim at, and they were a widely known weakness.

“But if I just aim at the eye-’

He pulled the trigger like lightning. Baaaaang! After a while, gunshots rang out, but they only broke the Cyclops’ collarbone.

“Damn it! It’s like that! How can I hit the eye when I did not adjust the clicks!”

Leeha clearly aimed at the eyes, but that was based on the distance from earlier! Leeha’s accuracy couldn’t help but drop when his target could blink from 30m to 50m in an instant. It was impossible to take the time to aim properly because of the sudden attacks thrown at them. The situation where they couldn’t do a lot of things continued. How many minutes have passed since they managed to save their lives? the three musketeers’ thoughts were getting darker.

‘It’s not even Bluebeard, they are just the five monsters that he made.’


‘I could tear them apart, if only I could hit them.’

‘What’s their weakness? Where should I shoot?’ In other words, it is difficult to hit them, and more importantly, I have no time to aim properly. Most importantly, to do that-’

Their magic should be sealed. The thoughts of the three people united as one. And another user who had come to a conclusion laid on the ground and raised his voice.

“Horn! The source of their magic is their horn, you just have to break them! The eye is not a weakness, the horns automatically react when you aim at the eyes!”

Fernand looked at them through the magnifying glass.

“Automatically?”

“Yes. That’s- not a cyclops. It shouldn’t just be recognized as a field boss Cyclops. Seeing how many experience had gone up-”

“Has your experience increased?”

“It’s a new discovery. It’s clear that my bestiary is filled with new information. Those guys are no longer ordinary cyclops. They’re a new species of monster. I will say it again, but their weakness is the horn! The more you aim at the eyes, especially the more skills you use to aim at the eyes, the faster the reaction of the horn will be. Because the horn responds to mana!”

Fernand quickly answered Leeha. As expected, it was the quick judgment of the best adventurer on Middle Earth. Of course, such a response wasn’t enough for Luger, who had already suffered.

“You should have said that earlier, you bastard!”

“As expected! Thanks, fernand-ssi!”

“If the weakness is found, why don’t we move quickly?”

While Luger’s words were lightly covered up, Kidd rumbled. After Fernand discovered the weakness, the first move wasn’t from the Three Musketeers nor Fernand.

“Five minutes and 32 seconds against these guys, and even identifying their weakness……. And it was because of the help of an adventurer. You’re still far away. Phew.”

Browless checked his pocket watch and put it back in his pocket. It was a very small sigh, but Leeha clearly heard it.

“Director-nim……?”

“Take a good look.”

Browless passed by, holding Leeha’s shoulder, and then approached Kidd and held out his hand. His head was pressed down as usual, but his tone wasn’t warm. The cold atmosphere he had shown when they first came to the academy appeared.

“Would you lend me 『Crimson Geckos』 for a while, Kidd-kun.”


“Of…… of course.”

Kidd, whose appearance resembled Browless, held out his revolvers. While the cyclops screamed with a putong, putong sound, he was not in a hurry. After equipping the four Crimson Geckos, Browless lifted the brim of his hand and spoke one last time.

“This will be your first and last class with me. Watch and learn. Understood?”

Browless’ loading was faster than Kidd’s. In an instant, he inserted bullets into the revolvers, his body flew to the left, and pulled the triggers on both hands. Twelve bullets were fired in the moment when his body was in the air before he even touched the ground.

With a tatatang- sound, one of the cyclops’ horn broke.

It happened in a blink of an eye.

‘Twelve sounds……?’

Leeha thought he heard wrong, but the expression of Kidd next to him said otherwise. It meant that even if it was shot in that short gap, there was not even a single error.

“Kuwaaaaak-! I won’t forgive you, the horns- count- gave me!”

Kung, kung, kung!

The cyclops, with its broken horn, ran without hesitation and raised its club. And that wasn’t all. Light flashed on the horns of the other Cyclops. Another cyclops was waiting with a rock in his hand as it moved to grab and strike Browless’ back. It was like a series of attacks by someone who had nowhere to run or escape to.

“You should have been suspicious when the horns flashed the first time. You should have assumed it was a new monster when I said it wasn’t an ordinary Cyclops. It’s a monster that uses magic, how does it use it? where is the source of magic? and how long is the time between spells? What is the range of its magic? Besides blinking and shooting lightning, what other magic could it use? You should have tried to figure all of those out.”

Even while watching such a situation, Browless did not rush to speak or move his hands. He calmly reloaded, but his speed was still faster than Kidd’s.

“To use a skill as soon as you see it, Luger-kun, you still have a long way to go. With that attitude, Bluebeard’s staff will pierce your neck.”

“Uwoooooo!!”

Hwaaaang—!

Browless watched the club swinging through the wind until the last moment.

And at that moment, he took a leap, ran toward the Cyclops, stepped on its thigh, and took another leap, raising his altitude.

It wasn’t flight magic nor magic to walk through air. Browless trampled on the body of the massive monster, raised himself up, straightened his arms, and aimed at the Cyclops’ face.

The Cyclops, who had lost its balance, was unable to correct its posture quickly.

“Indeed…… if you approach like that-”

“-does that mean you can prevent the other cyclops from attacking? Keep the enemies at bay. B-but, if you don’t know the characteristics of the monsters-”

“I think that’s what I said. You must not move without a full understanding of the enemy. Also…. the three of you should not rely on your skills, but to figure out its weakness with only knowledge and experience.”

Fernand received the admiration of Kidd and Leeha. How did he do that? They couldn’t even ask. Although he was an NPC, Browless proved that it could be done.

“Most importantly.”

Tatatata…….

Every time Browless’ finger moved, a hole appeared in the Cyclops’ face. Out of the 12 bullets, those that pierced the eyes exceeded five. Because of their structure, where their brain was connected to the optic nerve, it could never survive. Browless swapped revolvers as the Cyclops fell. He put the empty guns into the holster and took out the ones that were still loaded, and moved his hands again in a ‘falling backward’ posture. The target was the Cyclops who was waiting with a rock. In an instant, bullets pierced its forearms, tearing through tendons.

“Kihaaaaaaat-”

“Noisy, one-eye.”

Hwirik, he kicked the Cyclops in the knees and landed on the ground after rotating his body. Even Luger couldn’t keep his mouth shut at his movements, which seemed to be calculated from the beginning. Browless ran toward the Cyclops that was in pain, reloaded, and broke its horn just by shooting while running. After that, he waited for the guys who couldn’t control their excitement to do something wrong and calmly put a bullet in their eyes. It appeared to be a simple repetitive task. As if removing eyeballs from a doll, Browless popped the Cyclops’ eyeballs.

“Secondly, you should think about the difference between attacks that work and attacks that don’t work. If you tried to figure out when they could use magic, you should have been able to do it quickly. Their horns respond when you use your skills, and when there’s a risk of the eye getting hit. Isn’t it simple? They only got hit when Leeha fired and Kidd panned. Both of them were attacks that failed to target the ‘eye’ accurately.”

“For sure……”

The only successful attack was by Leeha, whose click adjustment was misaligned, and Kidd, who was firing rapidly with an unstable aim.

Both attacks were normal attacks, not skills, and were attacks that failed to target the eyes.

(To be continued…)
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“If it wasn’t for Fernand, what would have happened to you? Tsk tsk, I can’t believe you are only this much, if you’re like this, I will have to think about it a little more.”

Every time he felt Browless’ disappointment, Leeha felt his ears burn. He definitely thought that he had grown quite a bit after dealing with Crolang. After his attack power had become stronger, to the point that it was able to dig into the scales of Alexander’s gold dragon, Leeha had become conceited.

‘But…… right. All of us are ranged dealers with the combat assistance system turned off. The moment our aim fails, no matter how high our attack power is, it’s useless.’

What’s the point of an attack that doesn’t hit? To think that he inherited neither 『Pierce』 nor 『Rapid Fire』 attribute but the 『Bullseye』 attribute, and failed to hit his target.

Even as the Three Musketeers reflected on their own thoughts, Browless’ movements did not stop. It was because the cyclops, who had figured out which of the five humans was the most threatening, focused its attack on Browless. Of course, its attack could not reach Browless. After grasping Blink’s pattern, Browless, the previous 『Rapid Fire』, showed a movement that was even better than a martial artist’s.

“Rapid fire isn’t just about moving your hands fast, your feet need to be faster than your hands. Kidd-kun. Be mindful.”

Dadadadadang-!

“The same goes for 『Pierce』. You don’t have to rely on technology to pierce. Aren’t you depending on it too much? More than anything, it’s stupid to forget something important with the thought of getting rid of your enemy in one shot. Think about what you should have done, Luger-kun. What you should have done was neutralize the enemy. In other words, you should have aimed for its legs, not the head!”

Dadadadadang-!

“Only in that situation would Leeha-kun have an opportunity to move. You did well against the ogres, but the three of you are disappointing.”

Dadadadadang-!

A Cyclops collapsed one shot at a time.

Browless, who had already finished two, cleared the other three with calm and nimble movements. The ruler of the Sentinel Mountains, demon nobles with Bluebeard’s power, those names could not hold a candle against the ‘Hero of the 2nd Human-Demon War’.

“Phew…… Thanks, Kidd-kun. At least you have taken good care of the guns.”

It was like saying, ‘Your skills are not that good, but I’m glad you took good care of my guns’. Kidd pressed his hat down to hide his expression, then lowered his head as he took back the 『Crimson Geckos』.

“Leeha-kun, how long did it take?”

“Oh, the time? Roughly- it took… about 3 minutes.”

“Three minutes. I am too old.”

Browless jerked his shoulders, loosening his joints. In just ‘3 minutes’, he killed 5 new-type cyclops infused with Bluebeard’s mana, and he acted like an old man who had played gate ball.


‘He said that we took about 5 minutes and 30 seconds. And that is not even to defeat them, it was to figure out their weaknesses with the help of Fernand’s items and skills.’

Fernand was also slower than usual. It was because he discovered a new type of monster, most importantly, he believed in the power of the Three Musketeers. Just like the situation with the trolls and ogres, he believed that they would be able to clear things up in an instant while shooting ridiculous bullets. In a way, the Three Musketeers seemed to have lost a little bit of Fernand’s trust. In fact, an NPC handled the situation faster and more accurately than the four top Middle Earth users who joined forces.

“Whatever, let’s look for the demon nobles.”

“Ye-yes!”

Leeha answered with an attentive posture without even realizing it. Leeha had treated him too lightly because they had become more comfortable with each other recently.

Now that the Three Musketeers have realized that they still have a mountain of things to learn from Browless, they must approach him with the resolve to lose a limb or two! Seeing Leeha’s action, Luger and Kidd had similar thoughts.

Therefore, no one rejected Browless’ order. Might was right. The Three Musketeers scattered throughout the Sentinel Mountains to deal with the remnants.

“Seeing that the quest hasn’t been completed yet, it looks like there are still some left somewhere.”

It was a pity that he couldn’t use mana clairvoyance because it was on cooldown. While stepping on the ground covered in fallen leaves and checking the quest window, a phrase suddenly caught Leeha’s eyes.

‘Condition for failure: Browless’ death, huh? Does that make sense?! Even if the three of us, me, Kidd, and Luger attack together, we won’t be able to win.’

It occurred to him that the failure conditions of the quest were conditions in which the noble monster reached the town of Berfort or Browless’ death, which could not have been achieved, made him laugh.

‘Rather, this was a trap. The penalty for failure was an achievement – Beginning of the Fall. If they didn’t want to acquire such a terrible title, they would have no choice but to place Browless at the back of the party as much as possible. In other words, there was a high chance that the condition was there to prevent them from using Browless’ power.. It would have been a big deal if they put Browless in front and died.

However, they didn’t have to be intimidated by such a thing if they believed in their teacher from the beginning. Had they believed in Browless from the beginning, they would have completed the quest a long time ago.

“Middle Earth really has a way to play with people’s psychology in a strange way.”

“What are you talking about to yourself like that?”

“Kidd!”

Kidd quietly approached Leeha who shook his head. His expression wasn’t very good either.

“Did you come from the same direction as me? Is there no aristocrat over there?”

“While Fernand looked for traces, the Headmaster said he would look in that direction.”

“Then, why don’t you go with the director-”


“Do you have to ask that?”

“Ah…”

It was because he didn’t need to…….

Seeing Kidd biting his lip, Leeha felt a little bit of pity.

Still, because they were both 『Rapid Fire』 attributes, the Headmaster took care of Kidd better than Luger and Leeha, but he looked disappointed in him today.

Rustle rustle.

What could he say in such a situation? Leeha and Kidd wandered around the Sentinel Mountains with strangely downcast expressions.

“But, a thought suddenly came to me.”

“What is it?”

“What if in the national war…… wouldn’t it have ended sooner if the director joined?”

“Cough.”

Kidd cleared his throat at Leeha’s question.

In front of that tremendous movement and aiming skills, would Alexander or Drake even be a big deal?

It was to the point where Leeha thought that Browless would have even been able to face Alexander riding Bailephus.

“Bluebeard is like that as well. I think the director should be able to handle him. In the first place, we are the descendants of such heroes.”

“That’s why it’s interesting.”

“What?”

“The fact that we still have a long way to go.”

Leeha smiled at Kidd’s answer. That’s right. Right now, he grumbled just for the sake of grumbling, but he didn’t mean it at all.

Melee, which had been pointed out as a weakness even before the national war.


He thought he had made up for it to some extent, but he still had countless weaknesses.

If he could overcome all of that, how much would Leeha’s appearance change? That expectation and imagination made Leeha’s heart pound.

“Heh, I like Kidd because he knows how to think like that. No, I mean, you think like that and let the cheesy words out of your mouth. Aren’t you ashamed? If you’re like me, even if you think about it, I don’t think I would be able to say that to anyone.”

“Y-You’re loud.”

Kuwa-kuwaaaa-!

As Kidd tried to hide his shame by pulling down his hat, they heard a troll’s cry. Did it break away from the group earlier?

Kidd and Leeha saw the the troll heading toward Berfort without purpose.

“It’s over there-”

Baaaaang一! The scream was buried by Leeha’s gunshot.

“I know that too.”

“You’re still able to hit accurately at a time like this?”

“If it’s walking or running at a steady pace, there’s no problem adjusting the click. You can just shoot without using a scope.”

Leeha picked up the fallen casing and put it in his pocket, holding the Black Bass again.

“But the cyclops from before- no, it wasn’t even a cyclops was it? We didn’t catch it, and we don’t even know its name. Anyway, I couldn’t keep track of the monster’s crazy blinking. That was the problem.”

“Can you make up for that weakness?”

“……Well, there are a few things that I could think of. I need to try first. How about Kidd?”

“It’s a secret.”

When Leeha smiled, Kidd smiled as well. It also seemed to mean they had completed a basic plan to identify and supplement his weaknesses.

“Ah, I guess it’s over.”

A notification window appeared in front of the Three Musketeers along with the sound of Luger’s cannon coming from afar.

When the last monster died, the Three Musketeers were no longer as downcast as they had been before.

“You’re here.”

“Yes!”

Leeha and Kidd answered vigorously, and Luger also replied in a very low voice.

Normally, he would have just nodded his head, but Luger probably thought that he had a lot to learn from Browless.

Leeha and Kidd appeared to want to burst into laughter at his unusual appearance.

“The end was a bit disappointing, but it isn’t that bad. You had a hard time.”

“Thank you, director-nim!”

Leeha responded loudly. He looked disappointed and worried that the intimacy might have fallen a little, but it was unfounded.

Browless nodded in satisfaction.

“Fernand-nim, did you find any traces of Bluebeard.”

“Hmm…… I think I know roughly, but this is definitely amazing. Normally, I can usually see the movement path, direction, and distance of the animal or monster, right? If I find new footprints, based on that, I can follow it and put information into my bestiary-”

Fernand excitedly opened his mouth.

Few people could handle the ‘pace’ of the Pioneering King which hadn’t changed at all from Kaztor’s lab.

While Browless was making a puzzled expression, Leeha intervened first.

“So, did you find any traces of Bluebeard?”

“-Ah, yes! It’s not detailed, and it’s different from usual… but I found it.”

“As expected of someone recommended by His Holiness, the Pope. Right, how is it? Where is Le?”

Browless was stunned at Fernand’s answer. However, the Pioneering King’s expression was not very good.

“That…… There are many directions.”

“What?”

“I detected him by linking the mana traces, but I can’t figure it out anymore. There’s one in the Northeast- in a province of Shazrashian Federation. There’s one in the Southwest- in Minis, there’s one in the west – in the wasteland…… and one in the east as well. Maybe in the east coast of Fibiel or maybe Kraven? Or maybe beyond that? East doesn’t even feel right. In other words, there’s one in each direction. Excluding the one with the least probability in the east, there are three directions. At the same time.”

In fact, it wasn’t an exaggeration to say that there’s one in the east, west, north and south. If that was the case, what was the meaning of finding and tracking traces?

Leeha tilted his head and asked.

“It couldn’t be possible, right?”

“No, as I just said, it is mana-linked. Unless he’s in all four regions at the same time, that’s impossible. How is that possible?”

“Do you know the approximate location?”

“Roughly…… I have a rough idea. Wait.”

(To be continued…)
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The dwarves panicking about the Dragon Heart and Leeha trolling them. lol.
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Fernand rummaged through his bag and pulled out a map. It wasn’t a map of each country like Leeha or other users had. It was a map that Fernand had pioneered himself, a special continental edition that he literally created and was the only one on Middle Earth.

‘That’s crazy. What is the size of-’

It looked like there were only a few folds, however, it unfolded endlessly. As it unfolded, expanded, and grew in size, the map grew larger than most mats, and Fernand jumped on the map and marked three directions.

“I don’t know exactly about the East. It’s hard to get the specific location, unlike the others which I could feel within range.”

In the north, the place marked was beyond the Shazrashian Federation in the northern troll area where the Three Musketeers had gone.

In the southwest, the place marked was in a spot that was both inside and outside Minis’ border.

And in the west, Leeha could read the word wasteland which was encircled.

‘Land of the Dead……. Isn’t that where Luger first discovered Bluebeard?’

Browless nodded as he looked at the places Fernand marked.

Did that mean that much would be enough? However, the harvest was much better than farming on the bare ground using one’s head.

“Gentlemen.”

“Yes!”

Browless called while looking at the Three Musketeers. And at that moment, a notification window appeared before their eyes again.

『You have completed the quest ‘Demon Noble “Bluebeard” Count Le – 1’.』

『Demon Noble “Bluebeard” Count Le – 2』

Explanation: ‘I think it would be right to search using the forces of the Human Alliance, but that’s not possible right now. Unless a peace treaty has been signed, the operation of the troops will only raise suspicions among countries. In the name of His Holiness, the Pope, I will try to persuade the king to conclude the peace treaty. Gentlemen…… the energy of Bluebeard can be felt throughout the continent.

Browless wants to dispatch one of the Three Musketeers to each direction to collect information.

You can select one: North, southwest, or West

Content: Obtain Bluebeard’s location or information on the Demon Noble Corps, (The region will be automatically removed if chosen by another user).

Reward: Demon Noble “Bluebeard” Count Le – 3


Condition for Failure: Death

Penalty for failure: Achievement – ‘Beginning of the Fall’

Additional Reward: 5 stat points for the first user to clear the quest

– Choose your region.

‘Send out one person at a time to collect information. So this time, I just don’t need to die? Isn’t this a quest that only I can do well?’

The penalty for failure is still the same, but the failure condition is more relaxed.

If he moved actively, he could also get stat points. Leeha quickly made assumptions about which area to choose, but he did not have to think about it already.

“I will go north.”

“The Land of Death is mine.”

***

“Huh? Ohh? I didn’t have to worry about it, just like that-”

“Then, you will have to go to Minis, beyond the border to the southwest, Leeha-kun.”

After cutting off Leeha’s words, Browless put his hand on Leeha’s shoulder.

‘Minis!’

The notification window disappeared in an instant.

‘Why did I get Minis? I am currently the most hated person by the Minis users-’

Ha Leeha had the highest contribution in Fibiel. The first quest was over, and Leeha had a bad feeling about his next destination. However, Bluebeard, as Leeha thought at this time, was not an easy monster. As one of the Fragments of the Demon King, his strength, speed, and tactics combined were beyond imagination.

-Hyung! Eong-ah! This is awesome, where are you and what are you doing now? It’s a big deal!!

It was at that time that he heard Kijung’s frantic whisper.

“A lot of demon nobles have appeared……?”


“Yes. Right now, the Royal Palace is said to be forming subjugation teams for those places, and are sending special messages. There were more than five places that have been confirmed in Fibiel alone-”

“Le finally…”

Leeha told Browless the summary of the conversation he had with Kijung. The content was similar to the situation in the Sentinel Mountains, with monsters contaminated with Bluebeard’s mana running wild. News that ordinary low-level users were currently being slaughtered unilaterally by monsters overwhelmingly stronger than normal with combat patterns not usually seen. In other words, it was the rise of the Demon King’s army. He didn’t know whether to laugh or cry about the fact that only one of the Fragments of the Demon King, Bluebeard ‘Le’, had appeared. Although they would take damage, it would not be fatal. Browless made a complicated expression while listening to Leeha’s words, then quickly gave instructions.

“Fernand, please report to the Pope immediately”

“Yes, I should. My mission is different from everyone else in the first place-”

“And the three of you as well. Go to your designated search location immediately. I will go to the Royal Palace and talk to His Majesty.”

As Fernand hesitated to bring up his story, Browless interrupted him and told the Three Musketeers instructions.

“Understood.”

“Then take care of yourself. It’s not about killing Bluebeard this time. He’s absolutely impossible to kill with your skills right now. You just need to improve your skills and gather information carefully.”

“I am not stupid enough to be humiliated twice. I don’t know about the two of them.”

Luger looked at Leeha and Kidd and quietly opened his mouth.

He too, must have been thinking about the direction in which he should grow. Leeha tried to refute, but Browless.

“Then hurry up. Before the continent gets into more danger!”

Browless took out the scroll and tore it up. Following him who disappeared first, Luger also wrapped up 『Cobalt Blue Python』.

“I will clear it first, so don’t touch it. The stat point is mine.”

“No, that’s why I chose north. If I’m in an area I have been in once, the clear speed would be faster than the two of you.”

“What? Really? S-Shameful! Kidd and Luger both chose because of that reason?!”

Was the charm of 5 stat points really that great? They chose a place they were familiar with in order to increase the clearing speed, Leeha suddenly felt it was unfair. Leeha thought about what else might be hidden where Bluebeard had appeared!

“Shameful? You don’t seem to know the meaning of the word. As expected of an idiot. This is what is called wise.”

“……I agree with Luger on this one. Then, please don’t die, everyone.”


Luger snorted and took out a scroll, and Kidd picked up a crystal ball as well. It took a few seconds for them to disappear.

“Jerks. Anyway, they don’t have any comradeship. Ah! Fernand-ssi, are you going back to Ezwen?”

Looking at where they disappeared, Leeha pursed his lips and looked at Fernand. The Pioneering King smiled strangely and smiled.

“Yes. I should.”

“Haaa……. This, I don’t know when we can go to the new continent.

“Haaa, looking at the quest story, it seems like we will only be able to go when this is over. And I think it’s a relief.”

Originally, the two of them thought that they would be able to go after the war ended. However, not only Leeha, but even Fernand vaguely sensed it. The fact is that unless the main quest was finished, it would be difficult for any country to provide a ship to the new continent.

“What’s a relief?”

“It looks like Leeha is close with those two.”

“Huh? Close? This? Aigoo, don’t even talk about it.”

Leeha asked while shaking his hand and tilting his head.

“And even if we’re close, why is that a relief?”

It was possible with Kidd, but Leeha thought it was too early to use the expression ‘close’ with Luger. Fernand did not give a detailed answer to the question Leeha asked, which he disliked.

“You will know when you get on a ship into the new continent someday. Then, see you next time!”

As expected, fernand, who smiled faintly, used a scroll and disappeared.

Sseuk-! With that sound, Leeha realized that he was alone in the Sentinel Mountains.

‘It’s been a long time since I’ve been on a quest by myself……. Besides, the two of them chose a place that is advantageous to them.’

Leeha must go to the southwestern part of Minis, to the land beyond the borders of Minis’ Kingdom. It was a place that had already been discovered, but it was rough terrain, so users didn’t go there.

‘I have to prepare thoroughly. There are a lot of items to prepare, and most importantly skills-’

Leeha’s expression changed at the word ‘skill’. A moment of astonishment soon turned into a feeling of wanting to hide in a mouse hole.

『Mana Freeze』! What an idiot!”

Wouldn’t Mana Freeze have worked against those monsters who can’t be called Cyclops?

The source of their magic was the horn. Magic was used as an automatic reflex, but, if the bullet was shot at the center where they were standing, they wouldn’t have been able to react automatically with their horns like Fernand said. What if that happened? Wouldn’t it block all the mana of those within a 30m radius and not be able to use magic like Blink anymore?!

“Haaa……. I was the biggest problem. I really need to reflect. No matter how close Luger and Kidd are to me, I shouldn’t have been careless.”

He might have subconsciously relied on them due to the overwhelming skills the two people showed in the case of Crolang. Leeha tightened his loose resolve.

‘I need to sort out my battle patterns. Set up scenarios and deal with every battle by distance, and by situation. First things first, items.’

Leeha picked up his crystal ball. He had work to do before he went to Minis. After 10 seconds, Leeha teleported to Hell Anvil.

***

‘Is Leeha-ssi in the Sentinel?’

In the Royal Palace, Shin Nara looked at her friend’s window and held her chest.

‘Ah, he’s now in Hell Anvil. According to Kay-ssi, he was going to catch a new monster… it seems it is finished, phew.’

She would have known about this simple thing if she asked directly but she couldn’t whisper to the person who left during the banquet.

‘Because he doesn’t know anything about a woman’s heart. I have set the best time with Bobae.’

What should they do and where will they go? He should have called once he finished. With a simple word, it’s easy for him to whisper and if there’s anything, I could go and help him. She was disappointed with Leeha’s attitude as if he didn’t need her help.

‘What the hell happened anyway?’

‘Wasn’t that an urgent matter enough to stop the awarding ceremony’s banquet? It is the first time that this has ever happened. In addition, new field bosses appeared suddenly…. Should we look at it like it is a simple event? Wasn’t the Demon King’s Fragment mentioned last time? Or is it related to Bluebeard?’ She didn’t know exactly either. This was because even at the time of the National War, she was mainly in the Royal Palace, so she was only indirectly informed of the many situations, including Luger’s story.

Of course, unlike ordinary users, they were reliable words because they were stories of high-ranking NPCs and users going to and from the palace, but their words are also mostly speculation.

Currently, only a few people, including the Pope, have a complete picture of the situation.

“Dame.”

“Ah, hello. Browless-ssi.”

And one of those few people, an NPC, spoke to Shin Nara.

“Is His Highness here?”

“Yes, it hasn’t been long since he entered the central palace. Because of the large bell that suddenly appeared, there was a group of knights who came to report-”

“I see. Okay.”

“Yes, ah, that- just now, Leeha-ssi……. disappeared.”

Where did you come from and what did you do?

Shin Nara, who wanted to hear the exact reason Ha Leeha had to go to the Sentinel Mountains, had no choice but to whet her appetite.

Browless busily moved his feet, not even having time to answer her question.

There were already many NPCs gathered near the audience room inside the Central Palace.

“Aren’t you Browless-nim?”

“How have you been? Captain. I have something to tell His Highness.”

The situation was different from usual when only the captain of the royal guards was near the king.

Even the captain of the royal guards was out and controlling the area around the audience room. It meant that there were already those who instinctively realized what this incident was related to.

(To be continued…)
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There we go, it wasn’t that Leeha was hiding his skill, it was just because he was an idiot.
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 “However, now-”

“We have a shared interest in it. Please.”

“Ah…… that…… I can give you my word, but-”

Even the hero of the 2nd human-demon war could not meet the king at any time. This was especially true for NPCs who value laws in the Royal Palace. Most importantly, Browless was a person officially excluded by those inside. The captain couldn’t move easily. Between the impatient Browless and the troubled royal guard captain, a woman with flowing black hair ran in.

Wait for Ha Leeha to contact her?

Waiting silently in the royal palace until he contacts her?

“Requesting an audience in the name of the Sacred Knights, I believe that Browless-nim brought confidential information that could threaten the country. I need to see his majesty right away.”

It was something that did not fit the character of Shin Nara. She promised herself that she would contact Leeha first if he did not contact her, which made her bolder than usual.

Chalkang- Chalkang-!

Her steel boots hit the marble and made a cold sound. Seeing her sharp and determined expression, the captain of the royal guard found it difficult to refuse.

“Okay. I will tell His Highness right away.”

Most importantly, it was an urgent request under the name of the Sacred Knights. The captain of the royal guard immediately rushed into the audience room.

“Dame?! What-”

“I thought you were in trouble. If it’s okay with you, can you tell me?”

“……Of course. With the help of the strongest woman in the Sacred Knights, I would have nothing more to ask for.”

Browless was taken aback for a moment, but he immediately took off his hat and bowed to Shin Nara. In response to the gentlemanly action, Shin Nara also bowed her head. A secret alliance was formed in an instant. If Browless had known that the reason Shin Nara made her move was only because of Ha Leeha, he wouldn’t have accepted either.

“Your Highness asks you to come in.”

After a while, the captain of the royal guard came out and led the two inside. In the audience room, with the king at the forefront, the captain of the royal guard, mage chief, and other reporting NPCs stood. Browless and Shin Nara briefly met eyes with Lotzac, the chief of mages.

“What is it, Browless? And even Dame Shin Nara. What is the threat to the capital?”

“Have you been well, Your Majesty?”


“There’s no need for such formality between us.”

Browless and Shin Nara, who have knelt, stood up immediately after the King of Fibiel beckoned. Browless looked around for a moment before opening his mouth.

“I just got back from the Sentinel Mountains because of a mission from the Pope. One of the Fragments of the Demon King, Bluebeard, went there.”

“Bluebeard?”

The king’s eyes widened. The captain of the royal guards also showed a very surprised expression when he heard the name. Shin Nara quickly scanned the NPCs. And the outstanding dynamical eyesight of the fencer, 4th in the ranking, did not miss the sight of Rotzak biting his lip, even just a little.

‘What is that expression…?’

The NPCs were the same. There were those who came as messengers representing the knights, and there were noble NPCs who were the lords of territories. All the NPCs who were of a certain age or were perfectly familiar with Middle Earth’s settings looked surprised.

However, only Lotzac was different.

‘Is he… regretting?’

It contained a nuance that it was a waste. Without being able to check again, the mage chief maintained his poker face and looked at Shin Nara. Shin Nara made eye contact with him for a moment, then lowered her head.

‘What’s wrong? The other NPCs must have been surprised by the fact that the monster called Bluebeard, actually appeared in Fibiel.’

Bluebeard, a Demon King’s Fragment. Even Shin Nara knew about it.

Wasn’t it said that the Pope even mentioned ex-communication just for the peace treaty to be signed? Therefore, everyone gathered here must have at least been aware that Bluebeard had appeared. However, the fact that Bluebeard had appeared ‘within the country’ was another story. So, they must have been surprised.

‘But Lotzac wasn’t surprised. No, he was rather disappointed.

‘Huh?’ Why was he disappointed?’

Shin Nara looked at Browless standing next to her, but his eyes were completely focused on the king. He probably hasn’t seen it.

“Then, what should we do? Where did Bluebeard go? Did that guy- come to the capital with the ghost army?”

“No, Your Highness. My students and I followed after him, but we could only find traces. Based on the traces found by the best adventurer on the continent, it is estimated that Bluebeard is currently roaming around the continent.”

“Pheeeew……. The continent.”

The king breathed out a big breath similar to a sigh. It appeared that it was a sigh of relief.


“Furthermore, while he is wandering around the continent, if you consider the appearance of ghostly monsters that took place in various parts of the country today, the reason why Bluebeard is roaming around becomes clear.”

Browless was convinced.

Newly created monsters all over Fibiel Kingdom, the users were calling the ghostly monsters as new Field Bosses.

And that guess was infallible.

The king and other NPCs made gloomy expressions as they listened to Browless’ report.

The reason why Bluebeard was roaming around, those who went through the 2nd Human-Demon War could not not have known. The king opened his mouth.

“……He is looking for other Fragments of the Demon King.”

“I can only think of that. At first, I thought Bluebeard was just trying to awaken and rally the ghostly legion- but I changed my opinion in the Sentinel Mountains.”

“Why?”

“It is because the number is too few, and the forces were dispersed. The ghostly army, the more they gather, the more powerful they become. Your Highness knows because you have experienced it, but-”

“It is one of my most terrifying memory.”

“Yes. There’s no way Bluebeard doesn’t know that. But instead of using his own forces and agglomerating their strength, he is just simply raising troops by infusing his mana everywhere … it has become a war of attrition, and wasting time. It means his main purpose is different.”

Browless’ words were logical.

To the extent that even Shin Nara, who has heard about the situation for the first time, could clearly understand the situation. It was Rotzak who intervened when Browless gave people a moment to think.

“But isn’t it strange, Browless. As you and I know, the Demon King’s army fled across the sea. Across the sea of dawn. Wouldn’t it be stranger to find the Fragments of the Demon King here now? What is Bluebeard-”

“The mage chief must know it as well. The fact that Bluebeard was among the Demon King’s army that left the sea. However, the place where Bluebeard was found was in the wasteland, under the Land of the Dead. My student first discovered Bluebeard In the ‘Mouth of the Abyss’.”

“Hmmmm…… Well…… Even if you say that, I wouldn’t know. There have been many hypotheses that the mouth of the abyss serves as a passageway, but it has never been verified.”

“It’s not a passageway, lord Lotzac, Bluebeard sealed himself in front of the mouth of the abyss, wrapped in red crystals. It means that the last place he was seen was an illusion. In order not to shed even a single ray of mana and not to let anyone know his location, he thoroughly hid after dropping the illusion as bait.”

“That too…… it doesn’t add up. Then how did your student find him? How did he come back alive after discovering him?”

“It happened by accident……”


“Bluebeard hid himself in a place where he was discovered by chance, and Bluebeard accidentally saved the human who saved him. Huh, that’s pretty easy to believe.”

Rotzak nodded sarcastically. The NPC nobles around them also moved their heads and agreed with Lotzac’s words.

Before Browless could say anything, the senile old man spoke again. The old man’s voice grew louder and louder.

“I believe that the pope confirmed that Bluebeard appeared, but I think it is unreasonable to connect Bluebeard with another Demon King’s Fragment in a series of events. Do you want to sign a peace treaty with those cunning Minis and Kraven for something we are not sure about? How…… how could you say such a thing in front of His Majesty!”

The other NPCs couldn’t open their mouths at Lotzac’s momentum, which was almost trembling.

“We won’t be compensated for threatening His Majesty’s safety! At the very least, shouldn’t we demand thorough punitive damages so that they don’t dare attack us again? How could a peace treaty be signed if there’s no condition of obtaining land, wealth, and a full sincere apology? A peace treaty is not the end of the war, Browless! Are you scorning His Majesty and ignoring our country?”

“Not ignoring-”

“Then? Are you telling me to accept and sign the treaty without any financial reparations, on the same terms as the existing border, because there is mutual damage? Do you mean that?”

Browless fell silent as Rotzak went into a fit of rage.

Inside the Royal Palace, the mage chief’s words were strong. Most importantly, it was also a problem that the nobles around him started to take his side when the story related to ‘practical interests’ came out.

“L-Lord Lotzac is right, Browless. Do you know how much damage has been done in this war? At least three cities or four castles should be given, but their ridiculous offers are killing me.”

“How about Kraven? Ignoring all the 100 battleships we requested and the culverin cannons included in them, they only sent a few cannons. What about the ships we lost and the lives of our people?”

It was Shin Nara who felt cramped while listening to the words of the castle lord near Marching Plains and Dike Beach.

‘This is why it is hard to deal with NPCs……. It is impossible to communicate once their eyes are blinded with greed.’

Kraven’s case was a little different, but since Minis and Fibiel insisted that they were the ‘winner’, the negotiation table became inevitably intense.

‘If this is the case, wouldn’t we get excommunicated and the possibility of going to war again go higher? I heard that the users who participated in the peace treaty negotiation couldn’t sleep properly and were busy reviewing the documents…’

Whenever Browless and Rotzak argued with each other, the nobles raised their voices as they divided sides.

It was then that the plan of Browless and the Pope, to try and convince the king to sign the peace treaty right away and focus on Bluebeard, collapsed.

Human greed can be a cause for anger.

***

“Huh? What?”

After stopping by Hell Anvil, Leeha could not hide his surprise.

“T-The shutters are really closed?”

Because Bottleneck’s smithy was closed. Knock,knock, he called out to Bottleneck or Beard brothers, but there was no answer from the dwarves.

“No way, did they…… move?”

It had been a long time since he visited once to supply ammunition during the war, so he did not know the situation well.

‘This is the only place to make bullets. Seeing that there was no word from Kidd or Luger even during the time of Crawlang……

If so, it means that the transfer was relatively recent.

In the end, Leeha had no choice but to ask around. Leeha went around and asked other dwarves about Bottleneck Blacksmith.

“Bottleneck? Didn’t those guys get kicked out for fooling around? I heard they moved somewhere on the other side of the mountain?”

(To be continued…)
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 “W-what did they do?”

“I don’t know. Anyway, seeing as they were kicked out of Hell Anvil, it wasn’t normal. This was probably the first. It is only possible after going through the Dwarven Chieftain’s meeting.”

 “Hmm…… What the hell…”

It was only after asking around that Leeha was barely able to confirm their location and move forward. After going through the Dwarven Chieftain’s Meeting, they were expelled from Hell Anvil! Leeha saw that this wasn’t an ordinary occurrence, especially since they were dwarves, which was a race that could not be played.

‘It’s not a disagreement between users, it’s the judgment of NPCs. Is it also a quest?’

Leeha also knew that Dwarves’ authority comes from their ‘dexterity’. The Dwarven Chieftain wasn’t chosen based on how well they fought, they were chosen based on how good they are at making products. In other words, it was not an exaggeration to say that their authority comes from being near minerals and ores. Being far from Hell Anvil was nothing short of a disgrace to Dwarves.

‘What the hell have they done? I also need to change the coordinates of the crystal ball.’

Leeha came to ask for a few auxiliary items and thought he would have a great experience. Two hours after getting out of Hell Anvil and walking downhill, the distant sound of hammering tickled Leeha’s ears.

 Kaang- kaang-!

“Bottleneck-nim!”

“W-who is it! Beard, beard Brothers!”

“Yes, boss”

A rustling sound rang out. Bottleneck and the Beard brothers were as sharp as frightened cats. Seeing them hiding behind a tree with various weapons, Leeha raised his hands high. Although they tried to hide, Leeha could see all the weapons sticking out.

“I-It’s me! Ha Leeha! I’m not here to fight!”

“……Ha Leeha?”

“Seriously, what did you do to come to a place like this? Long time no see. I thought you needed something, so I bought some drinks and-”

Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers looked at Leeha with dazed expressions. Leeha gave an awkward greeting and rummaged through his bag. At that moment, one of the Beard Brothers attacked him.

“T-This guy! It’s because of you! You’re the reason!”

“W-Wait, bear with it, little hyung!”

“Waaaah?!”


The older hyung grabbed the younger hyung, and a commotion broke out. Leeha stepped back and examined the faces of Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers. What were they talking about?

“What? Why are you treating someone you haven’t seen for so long like this?”

“You’re saying that?! Eong! T-That chimera item! What’s your relation with Ghibrid?! B-Because of that item- Kuhuhuhu……”

“Stop it, beard Brothers. Both of you, get inside. I will talk with this bastard.”

Bottleneck told them to go inside with a tired voice. At last, the Beard Brothers sobbed and even shed tears. The dwarf had a soot-stained beard and a tearful expression. Leeha could not understand the situation.

‘What did they mean chimera item? Ghibrid?’

He knew that Bottleneck would definitely curse at him because the Beard Brothers made a fuss. And he was a dwarf that used all kinds of abusive language. However, contrary to Leeha’s worries, Bottleneck only sighed.

“You, are you really Elizabeth’s successor?”

“What are you talking about, again? You obviously know my rifle.”

“You have nothing to do with the Demon King’s Fragment, do you?”

“Demon King’s Fragment?”

Leeha was a little perplexed. He never thought that he would hear it in this place.

“I met Bluebeard not too long ago-”

It was the appearance of the Demon King’s Fragment and the Pope’s confirmation that ended the massive human war. Enough time had passed for non-user NPC races to hear such news. However, Bottleneck shook his head. The dwarf’s eyes trembled slightly.

“I heard about Bluebeard. I am not talking about him”

“Yes? If not Bluebeard, who else?”

“‘Ghibrid’…”

Bottleneck spat out a name that Leeha heard for the first time. Then he took a deep breath and spoke. It was only after listening to the story that Leeha was able to guess what was going on and why the Beard Brothers were in a frenzy. He was also convinced.

“……You are not related to one of the Fragments of the Demon King, ‘Chimera Nest’ Ghibrid…… right?”

A strange conviction that a Demon King’s Fragment will wake up sooner or later.


***

Of course, what did it mean? It was the first time he heard the name Ghibrid! Leeha was about to say that, but he paused for a moment. It wasn’t the time to figure that out. Bottleneck’s expression was very desperate. Leeha didn’t know why, but Bottleneck always made all of his requests, he knew that Bottleneck had a kind of affection for him. Leeha wasn’t stupid enough to joke around such a person.

“I swear I have nothing to do with Ghibridwa. This is the first time I heard that name.”

Leeha looked directly into Bottleneck’s eyes. He had a calm voice, clear eyes, and without any excitement. The dwarf made eye contact with Leeha for a long time. Leeha was worried that Bottleneck might suddenly attack like the Beard Brothers, but fortunately, it didn’t happen. Bottleneck just let out a big sigh.

“Right…… I thought so. Because you’re the successor of that unruly girl. There’s no way a person with a dark heart would be able to do it. Sorry.”

“No, I am sorry. What were you talking about?”

Leeha looked at Browless for a moment and raised the tone of his voice.

“Before I continue talking, please put down your weapon. Also, please disarm the traps set up around here.”

“Heu, you noticed?”

“Dull guys will get caught, but I am Elizabeth’s successor. I’m not stupid enough to get caught by this much.”

When Leeha raised the mood with a playful attitude, Bottleneck also smiled at him.

However, it was clear that they were not in an ordinary situation. It hadn’t been long since they were kicked out of Hell Anvil, but what did it mean for them to have already installed various traps to drive out uninvited guests?

‘Does it mean that they are hated by the Dwarves?’

How many traps have they set up? When Leeha first appeared, they hid behind the trees with sloppy movements, clearly exposing where they hid, all of it must have been a trap.

“If a real intruder triggered the trap…”

‘Anyway, they are great dwarves.’

Leeha was about to open his mouth again when Bottleneck pulled out a thread installed between the trees.

“I heard that you were called after I asked for night vision goggles last time…… was it because of that? But that…… was my own creation that has nothing to do with the chimera.”

Although the structure and principle were referred to in reality, in Middle Earth, it was a substandard idea. After Leeha learned that it was possible to make a scope out of a Cyclops’ lens, he realized that he could make a night vision by using various materials.

“I also know that it has nothing to do with the chimera. I thought the chieftains who called me were just crazy. However, that wasn’t the case.”


Bottleneck answered without looking at Leeha.

“Phew, let’s go in and talk.”

And finally, after disarming the last trap, Leeha entered Bottleneck’s new smithy-

“Phew, it’s better than last time! It is much wider and bigger here! The other day, I had to bow down to enter, and-”

“If you don’t want your mouth to be removed by the Beard brothers, stop talking about it already.”

“Heop…… yes, I understand.”

Bottleneck was more or less back to normal, but the Beard Bottleneck were still angry. It was an atmosphere in which they might get angry if he tried to lighten the mood.

“So… what happened? Who is ‘Ghibrid’?”

“I already told you. He is a Demon King’s Fragment. Compared to Le who calls himself count as a wordplay for Demon Noble, Ghibrid is truly a guy worthy of the name Demon King’s Fragment. It’s because his specialty is to assemble all sorts of monsters into a new chimera. That guy endlessly changes his appearance…” A ‘chimera nest’ that spits out chimera…

Leeha swallowed dryly at Bottleneck’s description. He definitely felt the power of Bluebeard as a Demon King’s Fragment, but at least his appearance wasn’t strange. Rather, it was closer to the appearance of a dignified old gentleman. Leeha briefly imagined a lump of distorted monster in the sewage cesspit.

“Hmm… It is clear that it wouldn’t look good. No, is that why they decided at the Chieftain’s meeting after seeing you make an item with similar characteristics to a chimera? To kick Bottleneck out?”

“I had a hunch. It was only confirmed in a hurry after Bluebeard appeared. Che, those damn chieftains.”

“How do you feel?”

“Do you think it’s only because of that one item you asked us to make? Even the chieftains whose heads are full of ore must know it was not a chimera. Even so, it means that they had already obtained some kind of information at the time they called me, and they confirmed that information as true when they learned of Bluebeard’s appearance.”

Bottleneck’s claim was logical. Contrary to his outward appearance, his hand movements were delicate, and he was also quick to notice. And it didn’t lose out to Leeha.

“That information. It’s about the chimera.”

“The dwarves who went out looking for a vein across the Red Mountain saw a group of chimeras. At the meeting of the chieftains at the time, they were shocked and even dispatched an investigation team, but they couldn’t find any evidence. So, that’s why they just let it go then.”

“Hmm……. A monster that just looks like a chimera could have moved somewhere, right?”

“They could…… However, chimeras are not naturally occurring monsters. It surely has an artificial task. Aren’t humans like that as well? Regardless of country or job, chimera modification is the worst crime. Anyway, when they did not find any evidence in the end, instead of thinking, ‘The Chimera, for which no evidence was found, has moved somewhere else’, they concluded that ‘it wasn’t there in the first place, they saw it wrong’. Because that was fast and easy Twe, stupid chieftains. They didn’t even know that it made things worse.”

“Under such circumstances, news of Bluebeard’s appearance spread…… the chimera at that time must have been real, that is, there is a possibility of Ghibrid appearing. But does it have anything to do with Bottleneck?”

“There is. It’s because Ghibrid’s appearance could turn the continent upside down. What if Ghibrid really appeared? The first race to find out and did not do anything could get criticized. The council of Chieftains must have been unable to bear that.”

“Oh…… t-then, to save their faces…… they expelled Bottleneck-ssi? No, what- it’s a national assembly- a meeting of chieftains, so it’s a parliament.”

Regardless of country or race, are the heinous actions of the council all the same? It meant that they expelled Bottleneck to save their own skin.

Looking at Leeha’s incredulous expression, Bottleneck frowned as well.

“They are stupid. They tried to connect me with Ghibrid, but couldn’t find anything so they settled on expelling me. If they had evidence, they would have killed me. They are fools that don’t know anything.”

In other words, it was the power of the word ‘Demon King’s Fragment’. Power enough to require an innocent scapegoat.

‘That really……. I came to ask for items, but I can’t even tell him.’

Strictly speaking, it wasn’t his responsibility. Even the council who kicked out Bottleneck knew that the item he made had nothing to do with him. However, in any case, he was the one who provided the opportunity.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 306

				
 Bottleneck spoke to Leeha, who was wondering what to say first.

“What else did you come here for?”

“Oh, well. It’s kind of. I need more bullets.”

“Really? That’s great. Then, can you help me? I can’t properly do my work here now. I want to go back to Hell Anvil again. To do that……

Shwaak!

As if it was waiting, a notification window appeared before Leeha’s eyes.

『Revocation of Decision』

Explanation: ‘Show proof that you are not connected to Ghibridwa. So that even the idiots with only iron ore in their heads can be persuaded. You are the reason, so help me. Of course, I am not asking for you to do it for free. Do you have to do it? Isn’t it natural! Find the chimera and kill it!

I… only want a chimera. You don’t have to take a risk. If it is simply a chimera, it could have been made by someone else other than Ghibrid. I hope that is the case. But if it’s really Ghibrid……. Your life might be in danger.’

Bottleneck wants to prove to the Council of Elders that he is not a subordinate of Ghibrid. Find the chimera beyond the red mountain range where it was found, shoot it, and bring evidence.

Content: Obtain at least 3 Chimera Fragments

Reward: 3 Bottleneck Blacksmith Free Pass

Condition for Failure: Ghibrid’s Summoning, death

Penalty for failure: Achievement – Demon King’s Minion

Continental Fame -3,000

Intimacy with Dwarf NPCs -60%

– Would you like to accept?

“Huh?”

Leeha quickly looked at the details. To find chimeras, that were artificial creatures, kill them, and retrieve their skins.

“They wouldn’t believe it if it was only one chimera. There must be at least 3 kinds.”


It was also a request to catch three kinds of chimeras.

“I-It’s still not sure if there really are chimeras or not-”

“There are. I don’t know if it’s Ghibrid’s or not, but it is clear that there are chimeras! The elders are also convinced. It’s just that the chimeras were hiding and couldn’t be found.”

“Still, three- and you’re saying that you’re not asking me to do it for free, but what is this?”

The reward was 3 of Bottleneck Blacksmith’s Free Pass.

Isn’t it the same as free? Even the Penalty for Failure was nonsensical.

‘The implication is lighter than ‘Beginning of the Fall’, but it isn’t easy, is it? Demon King’s Minion?’

The condition for failure is not only death. Ghibrid’s Summoning?

‘What kind of skill do I have to summon Ghibrid? Something is definitely strange.’

Even in the midst of being flustered, Leeha’s mind quickly turned. He didn’t exactly know the quest-related information, but the approximate name and location quickly crossed his mind.

“Will you do it, or not-”

“This free pass.”

“-Huh?”

“You will make anything I request, right?”

“Well, what do you want me to make? If I can make it, then……”

Bottleneck half-forced Leeha to do it, but when he saw Leeha’s shining eyes, his momentum subsided. Leeha quietly thought.

‘Bargaining.’

『Bargaining skill has been activated.』

『The probability of persuading the target increased by 43%.』

Poor Bottleneck would get taken advantage of.


****

“It’s a mess.”

Leeha temporarily logged out to gather information. In the meantime, Leeha, who entered the community, saw all kinds of complaints from users about the appearance of demonic monsters.

『Title: No, how can I catch ogres when they are gone!!!!!』

『Title: 『Help!』 Clear up the monsters in the Poar Village please please please』

『Title: Has anyone seen Cyclops use magic? ㅁㅊㄷㅁㅊ ㅇ』

『Title: By the way, is the war over? 만 겨?〉

『Title: Level 170 2nd Raid Corps Alliance Raid Challenge Story.txt』

‘There are 60 people in 2 raid teams. Level 170 is by no means low. Most importantly, they are higher-leveled than me.’

However, the content of the article was a record of a miserable failure. Most importantly, they would naturally fail if they thought that it was a simple raid. Instead of catching a single boss monster, they should have thought that they would fight dozens of boss-level monsters. The users did not grasp the essence of the demon corps that death was everywhere.

“If you rush without information, that’s what happens.”

Luger, who rushed in without any information and shattered monsters, came to Leeha’s mind for a moment, but he was a rare exception. Ordinary users are not able to handle field boss-level demonic monsters that appear on a large scale. Leeha shook his head and searched for the information he needed. It was because the word “red mountain” kept catching his eye. He wondered where he heard it, but he could not remember.

“I knew it would be like this. Heck, I knew it would be like this. It is the place I saw on Fernand’s map.”

The name was written on the continental map revealed on the internet. Compared to Fernand’s 50% map completion, although the map that many users made by joining forces helped, it was not accurate.

“If I do well, I can hit two birds with one stone.”

The place Leeha was looking at was the southwestern part of Minis Kingdom. The name Red Mountains was written in small letters within the range of the place to go for Browless Quest.

‘I will sleep for today, and log in again tomorrow.’

After finding information and other necessary materials, Leeha turned the computer off and pushed his wheelchair toward his bed. Even as he laid down in bed, information related to the Demon King’s Fragment, the optimal route to clear his quest, and information wandered around his head.

‘Still, what if I get the Demon King’s Minion achievement?’

He laughed halfheartedly, imagining if he could do it twice, or if Middle Earth was a single-player game, he would have tried it at least once out of curiosity.


‘Well, there’s no way I’d be such a fool. I should go to sleep.’

He laughed at it, but he didn’t think that someone would seriously consider it.

***

“If Madam Ju doesn’t even know about it, I have no choice but to wing it..”

Leeha stopped by the Holy Grill to get information related to Bluebeard or Ghibrid’s chimera, but he did not get any results. In the end, it meant that he had no choice but to check it out himself. However, Leeha hesitated for a moment in front of the warp gate. Bottleneck’s quest must be completed anyway. Since he was kicked out of Hell Anvil and it was difficult to obtain materials, Bottleneck told Leeha that he couldn’t make anything other than bullets.

‘In other words, I have to complete Bottleneck’s quest to get the auxiliary items I have thought of. It’s a good thing because the quest overlaps with Bluebeard quest anyway. It’s a good thing but…. Haaaa……. Of all places!’

It had to be Minis. Fortunately, no one could identify Leeha as ‘Fibiel’s Hero’. Unlike Drake’s coat now, Leeha wore the Brown Bear in the entirety of the war, and he wore formal clothes during Fibiel’s Awarding broadcast, which was broadcasted around the world. In other words, it was inevitable that people who can distinguish his appearance were rare.

‘Still, people with good eyesight will remember faces, so that’s a problem. Daaamn it.’

Different thoughts floated in Leeha’s head, from minor(?) worries that Minis might have created a quest to get him, to thoughts about Petyr and others.

“I will think about it for now. I can kill them all when they come.”

****

Click. The sound of the bolt being pulled softly resounded. However, he had underestimated himself. Rumors that he was Fibiel’s number one contributor and that he had injured Alexander spread far and wide in Minis, so who would dare attack him? Chiyou was also interested in gathering information about Bluebeard, so there was no particular threat.

“If I think about it, isn’t this a good thing? If I had chosen north of Shazrashian, I would have gone to the northernmost part to find Bluebeard, and to the southernmost part to find the chimeras, it’s almost like crossing the continent. Right, right.”

After warping to Nitai, the southernmost part of Fibiel, Leeha crossed the Marching Plains and headed to Minis.

The land that had been dominated by Faust and Crowley, was now left with no traces of them.

‘It was dangerous. If those guys had advanced a little faster, the Fibiel army would have been perfectly caught in from the back.’

To be more accurate, it was Ewin who stopped them, and it was a strategy to drive the Fibiel army through Alexander, but Leeha didn’t know that. While he was the one who broke that strategy.

Noone touched Leeha until he crossed the Marching Plains and crossed Minis’ border. Leeha ran nonstop for a few hours until he arrived at the first castle, castle Van Cowl,.

Just like when Leeha first arrived in the capital, inspections were underway at the entrance of Castle Van Cowl.

‘If there were a lot of people, I would have just mixed in …’

However, unlike Aelstock, minis’ Castle Van Cowl did not have that many people. Of course, there were people coming in and out, but they were arranged in an orderly line, so it wasn’t crowded.

“Please put your hand on the crystal ball. Thank you.”

One person entered Castle Van Cowl, which reduced the number of people in front by one. Leeha’s heart pounded as he approached, finally, he stood in front of the gate of the castle he captured.

‘Come to think of it, byeolcho Special forces lead during the siege, right? In the end, I am actually the one who destroyed this gate…’

It was Leeha who made and supplied the bombs and made the strategy.

Gulp, as he took another step closer, Leeha swallowed dryly, the soldiers in front of the huge gate, which had already been restored, stared at Leeha.

“Write your name and affiliation, and raise your hand.”

Will the fight begin the moment he raises his hand? It was not without possibility. Even though there was a truce, fighting against each other was not prohibited at all.

‘It took two years for the Korean War to completely set the 38th parallel after the armistice agreement. How much blood was shed to advance the border at that time?’

What if he went into battle like that?

Should he use a teleport scroll? To fight or not to fight?

He had to enter at least one city in order to use the warp gate between Minis cities!

“My name is Ha Leeha, belonging to Fibiel, which is currently in a ‘truce’ with your country.”

Emphasizing the word ‘truce’, Leeha raised his hand. Boom-! The crystal ball howled and emitted red light.

The response was completely different from the light blue light emitted before, Leeha reflexively opened the case of Black Bass and tried to take out his rifle.

“Ha- Ha Leeha!”

“Wha-wha-what is he doing here……?”

That was until the guards took a couple of steps back in astonishment.

“Huh?”

The terrifying Van Cowl guards, who had been glaring at him until just now, had suddenly become docile sheep.

Step, step. At least Leeha had found a clear way to differentiate users from NPCs. The people who took a step back were users.

“That person says he is Ha Leeha.”

“Because of him- isn’t he the reason our castle gate was destroyed!? Why is a guy like that here?”

“Shh! Shh! Do you want to die? Look at those vicious eyes, those are the eyes of a murderer. A guy like that would kill people just by looking at his eyes!”

And the people who glanced at his face while saying those kinds of things were NPCs.

Civilian NPCs in Minis in the shopping district feared and loathed Leeha.

He didn’t know whether he liked it or not. Until he reached the warp gate, Leeha was treated like a monster by Minis’ NPCs.

‘My reputation had gone up, but my intimacy had gone down, so this is what would happen. Cheap. Should I be grateful that I am able to warp?’

(To be continued…)
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 Through the NPC in the warp gate, Leeha moved from Castle Van Cowl to Radcliffe, a city adjacent to the red mountains. There, he was treated the same way. There was nothing bad about that, but he felt somewhat disappointed.

“Excuse me, sir?”

“Hooo, go away! You bastard! Are you trying to kill me as well!”

“No, it’s not like that. The monsters beyond the red mountains-”

“This bastard! Everyone! A killer has appeared in our town! Everyone!”

“Haa…… Information cannot be obtained directly.”

Regardless of the region, it was clear that the attitude of the NPCs of Minis would be a hindrance to Leeha.

“Looking for a magician to hunt griffins~! 2 people are waiting for a ranged dealer, we will go as a 3-person party!”

“Looking for a tanker or Ghibrid tank! Someone who wants to hunt on the red mountains who is level 170! Only those who know how to tank flying mobs~ Sir! Sir! Are you a tanker? Would you like to join us?”

The second option was users. It was also possible to join a party and ask them questions. Watching the user who was looking for a party cling to a person, Leeha pondered.

“Get your hands off me.”

“Eh?”

Perhaps because he was wandering alone, he probably caught him as he wondered if he was a user looking for a party. The man had red, shaved hair. He wasn’t as big as a giant, but he was quite big, enough to attract people’s attention.

“Get your hands off me if you don’t want to die.”

“Ohhh… Yes.”

The party leader looking for a tanker or ranged dealer removed his hand. Even Leeha, who was quietly devising his plan, was attracted by his action.

‘Is he a person who was impressed by basketball anime?(TL: Sakuragi) I think the nickname Kang Baekho fits perfectly. No, it feels like as the level goes up, the number of mannerless users increases. It would be worth watching if I put him next to Luger- huh?’

The red shaved-haired man looked around and made eye contact with Leeha.

Gulp!

Leeha felt like his thoughts were read, so he turned his eyes to him. Even so, the man did not remove his gaze on Leeha. As if he was going to put holes in Leeha’s body with his eyes, Leeha continued to feel his energy.


‘Kuaa……. Why is he like that? Did he recognize me?’

The probability that this user is from within Minis is high. Was it possible that this person was killed by Leeha during the war?

There was enough reason for Leeha to be hated here, that is why he got numb to it. Leeha pretended to look elsewhere for a moment, then quickly turned his head. The man who had been staring at him disappeared.

“Phew, what would I have done if he suddenly attacked? As expected, it’s not possible to join a party.”

It was dangerous. In addition, if the information was leaked, it could get troublesome. In a situation where it was difficult to ask users to join their party, a name came to Leeha’s mind.

“Ah! I’m so stupid.”

A person’s name suddenly came to Leeha’s mind and Leeha quickly checked his status in his friend’s window.

-Fernand-nim! Hello!

-Ah, Ha Leeha-nim. Are you going to go to the Red Mountain? That’s great.

Information check! From NPCs? From users? Didn’t Leeha have an acquaintance who had better information than anyone else? Even the NPCs call Fernand the Pioneering King! In fact, as soon as Fernand saw Leeha’s location, he guessed his route and answered, satisfying Leeha’s expectations.

-As expected of the Pioneering King. Besides Bluebeard, I have another quest right now. Ah, it’s not different, do you know where a monster-like chimera appears?

-Chimera?

-No. It seems there are more than one so it should be called a ‘swarm’ of chimera….

I was wondering if Fernand-nim knows anything.

-I have seen it some time ago, but…. It wasn’t in the borders of Minis. I crossed the border in the Red Mountains-

-Really? Did you see any?

-I had a quest to find a mine for the dwarves. It was memorable because I ran out of time and the quest failed.

‘Wow……

Leeha was reminded of what Bottleneck said. They went to look for a new vein, and the first group reported that they saw a group of chimera.

And what was Fernand saying now? The user who led the group that reported the incident was him.


‘Wait. If that is the case, wouldn’t it be better to just take Fernand as a witness instead of Chimera Parts? Is that possible? No, that’s not it. We don’t need to prove that the chimeras are there right now, it is to prove that Bottleneck does not have anything to do with chimeras. That is the quest……’

Fernand: If you’re going to catch a chimera, be careful.

While Leeha was organizing his thoughts, fernand sent another whisper. His voice was low and heavy.

Leeha: Are they strong?

Fernand: The chimeras are chimeras, but there are dragons living there. There are probably a few people who know.

Leeha: Eh? Dragon? T-The white dragon Raid is not there. Fernand: Heuheu, are there only white dragons? Isn’t it because the white dragon is the weakest dragon, the reason why everyone only runs white dragon Raids? There are also dragons in the Red Mountain.

Leeha: Wow! This……. Do you know what kind of dragon it is? What kind-

-Fernand: don’t know either because my immediate reaction was to quickly run away. Since it has a connection to the name of the place, well, can it be a red dragon? No, considering that the dwarves were looking for a copper vein at that time, it is possible that it could be a metal dragon.

Leeha: Hmm… Okay. Thank you for the information!

Fernand: You’re welcome, if you find traces of Bluebeard, please contact me right away!

Getting information didn’t put Leeha’s mind at ease. He was happy to hear about the chimera, but the dragon. Leeha’s mind got dizzy and complicated.

‘A dragon related to a copper vein, is it possible that it is either a Copper, bronze, or Brass Dragon? If that’s the case, it would be fortunate…… but if it is red-’

Leeha received a blessing from the Gold Dragon Bailephus.

There was a positive intimacy effect with metal dragons, however, it decreased the intimacy with Chromatic Dragons. In other words, depending on which dragon lives in the Red Mountains, Leeha’s safety could change a thousand different times.

“Phew……. I need to go first-”

“Wait.”

As he was about to leave the town, Leeha heard someone call out to him. And looking back, Leeha could not help but be surprised.

“K-Kang Baek-ho-”

The man with red-colored shaved hair stood there. He did not have a favorable eye.

“Kang Baekho?”


“No, no, that’s-”

Leeha was so surprised that he unknowingly spat out the words that were only in his mind.

Hearing the word Kang Baekho, the red-haired man tilted his head. In the meantime, Leeha took control of his emotions and regained his composure.

Anyway, they were inside the town and even if he was a Minis user, the probability of attacking him right away was low.

“What do you want?”

“Are you going out?”

“What?”

“I asked if you were going out of Radcliffe. Are you going to the Red Mountains?”

What is this?

At that point, Leeha felt slightly offended. Judging from the way he treated other users earlier, Leeha knew the red-haired man wasn’t normal, but that was all nonsense!

“Why do you want to know?”

“What?”

Leeha was not without a temper. And he had already been through this type of user several times.

Most importantly, his level of cuteness could not compare to Luger’s.

“I don’t have any reason to tell you, and if you want to ask something, be polite. Then-”

“No, wait”

The man grabbed Leeha, who calmly turned around.

Kwak-! The strength that held his arm was unusual.

“What are you doing, can you let go? If I perceive your action as hostile, you will die right away.”

If his HP decreased even a little, Leeha tried to take action, but it didn’t. As Leeha frowned, the corners of the man’s mouth went up.

“I am sorry. I didn’t mean to offend you. I was just curious. I thought I might be able to help, so I asked.”

“I want to explore the Red Mountains, but there are a lot of monsters, so it is dangerous to go alone. If you are going there, wouldn’t it be better if you brought me along?”

Leeha tilted his head and looked at the man.

What was that awkward way of speaking?

‘Is he an NPC……? No, judging from how the party wanted to invite him earlier, he looks like a user. What country did he come from that the conversation is like this? He’s like a user, and NPC at the same time… Is he a minority? Is that why the translation is not smooth?’

Seeing that no quest notification appeared, Leeha guessed that he wasn’t an NPC.

However, the way he spoke was too awkward for a user.

Still, Leeha felt that he should treat him like a human in any case, after all, he said he was sorry.

‘Dark skin, tall nose, sunken eyes*••…. Certainly not from the East, maybe Turkey? Is he an Arab? Is that the reason?’

The system in which each country’s language is automatically translated, but it is only people’s evaluation, and Leeha had not experienced it himself.

In other words, it was reasonable to guess that it was not able to translate languages from some countries.

“Don’t you want to? But you have to believe me. Other people might not know, but there’s a dragon in the Red Mountain.”

“Huh?”

And that one word made Leeha, who was worried, relax.

It was top-secret information that Fernand told him only a few people knew. Knowing that meant that this person was also good at collecting information or has actually traveled around the Red Mountains.

‘There’s also a high probability that he knows about the chimera.’

The user did not make other people feel good, but there’s no reason to decline if he is of help.

“Let’s make a party and go together, okay?”

“That’s right.”

“What is your level?”

The man looked down for a moment. In fact, party hunting was not his main purpose기

There was no need to talk about level, but that was not the reason Leeha asked.

“183.”

“Hmm, okay. Tell me your nickname, I’ll send you a party request.”

“Kuzi.”

The final step separates a user and NPC. The red-haired man passed Leeha’s final test.

There were only a few NPCs who understood the concept of level, but that was only for Madam Ju.

‘An NPC that deals with a lot of information, and at the same time has a deep relationship with users, they won’t understand the word level because they don’t have an understanding of the game. Besides, it’s not bad if he had a level where they could share experience points…

They had a 20-level difference.

Being at that close distance also made Leeha feel a strange connection with the man.

Leeha left Radcliffe after making a party with the red-haired shaved man, cushy.

(To be continued…)
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 “But that…… why is Kuzy going to…… Red Mountain?”

“There’s something I have to find there.”

“Hmm. Is it a quest?”

Seeing his indifferent attitude in the beginning, Leeha wanted to be hard on Kuzy, but his looks made it hard to do so. No matter how one looked at it, he looked old. It was difficult to speak casually because he looked like a user in his mid-40s or older with a face that might be similar to Browless and Tale.

“But why do you want to go with me? Aren’t you curious about my level or items?”

“I am curious.”

“Huh… Then why didn’t you ask? Are you curious or not?”

Leeha tilted his head when he saw Kuzy’s vague attitude.. At this point, Leeha couldn’t understand why he needed him.

‘At level 183, his items look good. It’s probably a dealer-tank system.’

He appeared to have a warrior-related job and had no shield so he must be a dealer-tank, most importantly, the two curved swords strung across his back.

‘What does he want with me? What is his plan, he won’t make me into sacrifice, right?’

He was someone who knew about dragons. If he received a dragon quest that asked him to bring a human sacrifice, it was possible. Kuzy, who was walking beside Leeha, seemed to have no thoughts, but Leeha was thinking of various situations and preparing countermeasures.

“Can you see my nickname?”

“Ha Leeha’’

“U-uh, that’s right.”

Isn’t he from Minis?

Seeing Kuzy’s unchanging attitude even after seeing Leeha’s name, Leeha fell into a labyrinth of thoughts.

What the hell did this man do?

‘I don’t know. Well……While preparing, let’s just think that I also found someone to rely on for insurance purposes. We have nothing to talk about for the time being.’

Two people left Radcliffe and headed for the Red Mountains, although there were hunting grounds in between, it wasn’t their purpose, so they were able to move quite quickly.


Quite a while had passed after they started to climb the Red Mountain within the border of Minis and pass through hunting grounds.

For more than a few hours, no conversation occurred between them.

Occasionally, Leeha tried to remove the awkwardness one word at a time, but Kuzy did not show any reaction. His purpose appeared to be literally nothing other than exploring the ‘Red Mountains’.

“Oh, a griffin. Should we catch it?”

“No.”

“Cough, then we should sit down for a moment.”

Leeha intuitively understood. Entering these ridges will completely cross Minis’ border.

In other words, they would now go to an unexplored territory.

It meant reaching the place where Fernand and the dwarves once went looking for ores.

‘If there is a chimera, it will start to appear from there.’

He heads to prepare in advance. A chimera is an artificial monster. There was no guarantee that a griffin, which usually appeared in the Red Mountains, would not be used as a material to combine with the characteristics of other monsters

“Phew……. It’s very fast.”

With the head of an eagle, and the body of a lion, its very presence felt like a chimera. Of course, it was just one of the unique monsters in Middle Earth.

Leeha took out his Black Bass and quietly aimed at the sky.

Pheww- The griffin, who was flying in the air, had yet to find Leeha and Kuzy, and Kuzy watched Leeha from the side with his arms crossed.

‘Is it’s speed similar to the golden eagle that Jin Gonggong had transformed into? No, it seems a little bit slower than that. It reminds me of the Golden Eagle from Candle Castle.’

While pulling the trigger at the target with a distance and height that would be difficult for a normal ranged dealer to hit, Leeha had one thought.

‘Will he ask me to share the items? I caught it alone. No, is this actually scaring me?’

Baaaaaang—–!

Even though he pulled the trigger while thinking of such nonsense, the griffin’s neck bent.


A level 170 griffin was not able to withstand a single shot from Black Bass.

The speed at which the beast fell was very fast.

“Amazing……. Its a dangerous weapon.”

Kuzy’s pupils dilated a little, it was an expression of wariness rather than surprise. Leeha quickly held the Black Bass and asked.

“Is this your first time seeing a musket?”

“That is a musket? It is different from what I know.”

“Hmm, well. It’s because there are different kinds of muskets.”

Leeha sneaked a glance at Kuzy. In fact, the Black Bass was a completely different rifle from other muskets and rifles.

IT was not easy to confuse the two even if one only knew the concept of either a modern weapon or a musket.

‘If you’re a Korean, you’ll know it’s a rifle as soon as you see it. Even if you are a citizen from a country that doesn’t require you to serve in the military, it’s still easy to know.’

It was surprising for Leeha that Kuzy, who even says he knows about muskeeters, couldn’t figure out how Black Bass and muskets were different.

‘Khmm, more than anything, it’s really sad that he couldn’t recognize Fibiel’s Hero, a person that raised his reputation in the national war.’

It’s easy to move because he doesn’t recognize me, but it’s also true that I feel a bit sad. After looting the sundries from the griffin, Leeha moved with Kuzy again.

“But where will you explore? Can you just walk blindly like this?”

“It’s still far. I have to go near the dragon.”

“Near the dragon…. Are there any other monsters out there? Not griffins or harpies.”

“Another monster?”

By the time they crossed another ridge, Leeha spoke to Kuzy. Now, users do not even come to the area, and even monsters that occasionally appear have decreased in appearance.

It was because it was a point where the monster ecosystem changed.

“Well…… Like a chimera or something?”


“Did you come to find chimeras?”

“I did not necessarily come looking for it, but I asked just in case. Because I thought Kuzy knows.”

“I’ll let you know if you promise to help me.”

“Huh? You know?”

At Leeha’s question, Kuzy nodded. As expected! Leeha was delighted that his guess was correct.

“What is it? What can I help you with?”

“Nothing. I have to investigate something near the dragon’s lair, and we just have to go there together.”

It was an unlikely proposal.

Leeha looked at his face, recalling the imagination that he had earlier -being offered as a sacrifice to a dragon and to achieve Kuzy’s purpose.

“……Then what if the dragon comes out?”

“You can use a teleport immediately. I only need to go near the dragon’s lair, I don’t have to meet the dragon. I will tell you where the chimera is if you promise to take care of the monsters on the way and wait for me until my task is done.”

He looked a little angry, but at least there was nothing suspicious about his words.

Most importantly, didn’t Leeha know 2 users who gained experience and improved their skills in a similar way?

‘Is his job similar to Fernand or Jin Gonggong……? Well, Jin Gonggong’s druid is a dealer-tanker, so maybe he is the same. It’s just that being a dealer-tanker-healer is vague.’

Jin Gonggong also looked for Leeha’s help because he needed someone to protect his surroundings while he investigated.

If that was true, then Leeha had nothing to lose from Kuzy’s proposition.

They were supposed to move together anyway, and most importantly, there’s no reason to refuse getting the location of the chimera just by making a promise.

“Okay. Then, how about catching the Chimera first and moving it around?”

“Really? Good. This way.”

As soon as Leeha finished talking, Kuzy quickly increased his speed.

‘Do I trust people too much…?’

There was no need to emphasize on keeping promises, they did not even bring out a 〈Contract〉.

“There’s a chimera nearby, but no one can find it. Usually, they hide inside a barrier.”

“Oh, is that so?”

“That’s right.”

Kuzy took Leeha to a place where they needed to travel for more than 2 hours. Now, in an empty space where no other monsters could be seen, red ocher and redwood trees were growing thickly on the floor. After arriving at a place that fits the name Red Mountain, Kuzy stopped.

“Is your purpose to kill the chimera?”

“Ah, yes.”

“Then prepare.”

Kuzy took out the two swords from his back and held them up. This is the first time Leeha saw Kuzy’s fighting stance after leaving Radcliffe. Leeha swallowed dryly while lifting the Black Bass. It was a preparation for the chimera, but at the same time, it was an action to keep Kuzy in check. Kuzy looked around for a moment before heading towards a nearby redwood. Among the redwoods that stretched high into the sky, there was a thick lone tree.

“There”

Swhiiiiiit-!

At the wooden pole thicker than a human torso, Kuzy swung his second sword.

It was so fast that the blade could not even be seen, and at the same time, it was a swordsmanship of monstrous strength that cut down the entire tree itself.

“Wow!? Wow?! Uwaaaaah!”

Admiration from the swordsmanship, surprise at the scene where the barrier was peeled off on a terrain where there was nothing before, and lastly, shock at the Chimera.

“Shouldn’t you have mentioned that there would be so many?!”

The number of artificial life forms, which seemed to be well over fifty, turned their heads toward Leeha.

“Grrrrrr!”

“Grrrr, Graaaawr!”

“You’re crazy!”

With a click, he immediately pulled the bolt and fired at one of the chimeras, and the Black Bass’s bullet pierced its head. However, its movement did not stop. It was because the chimera still moved despite having its long neck attached to its broken head. As he spat from another head sticking out of his side.

“What a terrible monster-”

Hwiiiik!

At that moment, the face on its side spat out something. Thick liquid dripped from the place where Leeha, who lifted the Black Bass, jumped out of the way of, barely avoiding it . As soon as it touched the ground, it began to corrode the pebbles and floor.

‘Poison, no, acid!’

Was it atrocious, not only in its appearance but also in terms of functionality?

“Get away!”

Baaaaaang!

As the Black Bass’ gunfire rang once more, another chimera’s head exploded.

Even though its internal organs have probably been torn, with the face on its side, the chimera did not stop moving.

‘Shit……. This is a big deal, it isn’t the chimera he had thought it was!

Wasn’t it too difficult to deal with even more of the fifty chimeras? Leeha licked his lips.

(To be continued…)
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The dwarves panicking about the Dragon Heart and Leeha trolling them. lol.
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 ‘I thought it was a monster that combined each monster’s characteristics like a griffin or a harpy, but what is this-’

That wasn’t it. Rather than creating a new monster by using the characteristics of different monsters, it was more like lumping different monsters together. One had three heads, one had twelve arms, and one looked like five trolls had been mushed together to become one…. Middle Earth’s chimera looked disgusting.

“Soul Link!”

Phwaaaaa ——!

Leeha could not delay any longer. Sniper rifles didn’t have much use against monsters that had neither clear weaknesses nor instakill points. In a sense, chimeras had to be regarded as the most difficult monsters to deal with for Leeha.

『Soul Link skill has been activated』

『Soul Link has become advanced ranked.』

『Your soulmate will be summoned for 30 minutes.』

『The current level of soul mate is level 66.』

『100% of the user’s level will be added』

『The current level of the enhanced soulmate is 229.』

“Hmm?”

The notification window that appeared in front of Leeha with a burst of red light was a ray of hope hanging over the swamp of misfortune. The level of the Soul Link skill had risen! 『Intermediate Soul Link』 became 『Advanced Soul Link』 with additional options. When the soul link was intermediate rank, the bonus level was only 75%, but after it reached advanced rank, it became 100%. The 25% point difference can cause a huge disparity, especially in Middle Earth where a single level and stat is important, especially from level 200 or higher. There was no way Leeha didn’t know that.

Baaaang—-!

“It doesn’t make a bear talk, but-”

Baaaaaaang一!

Leeha fired a single shot along with Koma’s roar. As soon as Kuma appeared, it started to burn his whole body and immediately attacked together with Leeha.

“-Damn it, Koma!”

“Grrrrr-”

“Kuooong!”


The chimera, which had flowing skin with whatever material it was made of, swung its arms on Koma. It was because of the dripping poison, rather than the attack itself that was threatening, but it was not a problem for a field boss, the Brown Bear, whose entire body was on fire.

Hwarururuk, the flames in its body made the chimera’s poison evaporate.

“Kuooooooh!”

Poooook, and with a single strike the chimera’s neck twisted around.

Aside from that neck, the chimera still had another neck, so it still moved, but Leeha quickly embedded a bullet in it.

“Kururut-……”

One chimera turned gray and collapsed. Leeha shouted at Koma while changing magazines.

“Koma, find their weakness and scratch them! Can you do it?”

Kung, Kuooong!

The bear nodded and ran.

Leeha remembered when Jin Gonggong once turned into a bear. It could be said that he was able to identify traps and find the monster’s weaknesses by just sniffing.

There was no way Kuma, who was higher-leveled than Jin Gonggong couldn’t do it.

“Kuoooong!”

“Okay!”

Koma scratched the spot on the chimera next to him, then immediately turned and slapped the other chimera on the shoulder. After only 0.4 seconds, the point Koma scratched and marked was smashed, and Koma’s ability to identify weak points and Leeha’s quick and accurate aim went well together. It was an impossible combination to play with a human or another soul mate! There were very few creatures who could survive when a chimera’s body burst and spewed out poison instead of blood. It was also a great help to Leeha that fire countered poison.

 “Hmm……” The ability to create a soul mate……. It’s not even from the spirit realm, so how were you able to do that?”

And after Leeha and Koma’s struggle ended, cushy who was stepping on the branch of a tree looked down. He had a tinge of admiring tone, but it was also close to being alert.

****

“Kuooong-!”

Koma scratched another chimera again, however, he made three scratches.


“Haa, haa, damn it!”

Baaaaang—!

Leeha quickly fired the Black Bass and succeeded in hitting one of the three marks, but the chimera’s movement did not stop.

‘It’s just a bunch of monsters, so it has several weaknesses.. Its weakness doesn’t mean much!’

Compared to a normal monster with only one instakill point, a chimera was a monster who ignored even that. At least, even the Bone Drake from Kaztor’s Lab had one instant death point… Leeha gritted his teeth and replaced his magazine once again.

“Grrrrrrr”

“Grr, grrrrrr!”!”

In the meantime, the chimeras crept toward Kuma. Watching the movements of the monsters from the front, back, and sides, swish, swish, swish! Koma quickly moved his feet and stepped back.

“Kuoong, Kuooong!!”

Although he was able to endure by burning the poison, the chimera’s physical ability itself was formidable. When three or four chimeras seemed to surround Koma, even a field boss had to back off.

“Koma, duck!”

Chuu, chuu-……. Leeha threw bombs toward the chimeras trying to surround Koma. The last bomb exploded in front of the chimera.

“Grr- Graaaaa-!”

It roared, and then the chimera’s flesh scattered all over the place.

As soon as the flesh touched a tree or a rock, it emitted unpleasant steam and corroded the object.

‘It’s already time. 30 minutes is almost up.’

After 30 minutes of fighting with Koma, they were only able to catch 20 chimeras. It was unbelievably insignificant if one compared it to Leeha’s accomplishments during the national war while riding Koma, and slaughtering Minis users. Of course, no one would think so as almost half of the 50 chimeras were obliterated by one person.

Leeha had to decide. Will he see it to the end, or will he turn around? Chimeras’ skins already started falling off everywhere. The poison on the skins disappeared after a certain amount of time, so he could pick up more than three harmless skins and run away.

‘As soon as I catch them all, another quest or situation will definitely follow, but it’s impossible with my current abilities. Damn it!!’

If I run away, would I be able to come back? Even if they came back, will the chimeras remain hiding in this place? It wasn’t a situation he could predict. If he turned around this time, it would be difficult to find evidence of the chimera again. The reason he was able to come here now was because he had helpers.


‘And come to think of it, cushy-’

He couldn’t keep himself from using his nerves as he was concentrating on the battle with the chimera. As Leeha looked around, he heard a voice from above the tree.

“Do you need help?”

“That, have you been there all this time?”

“Yes.”

Stepping on a tree branch, leaning against the tree, with his arms close, and relaxed expression. Leeha never asked for help, but seeing him decide not to help him in dealing with the chimera and treated him like that, Leeha felt a little bit sad.

“W-wait, can you help me for a second? Can you take the aggro while I pick up the items!”

Of course, that was that, and now he needed help. When Leeha shouted, cushy nodded and jumped down the tree.

“Got it.”

『Soul Link has been released.』

『The soul of your soul mate returns.』

“Ah! Now that the bear is gone, be -” Leeha couldn’t finish his words. The spot where Kuma had disappeared like smoke exploded as soon as Cushy touched the ground.

“-care…… ful……”

The sound of the air being but was heard. The movement of the curved swords reflected light. However, the blade didn’t shine, only the polarized light around Cushy could be seen. A chimera’s body turned into pieces every time the polarized light shone. It turned into minced meat! Even Leeha, who had the 『Hit』 attribute, could not see the curved swords’ movement properly.

“What……?”

His movements, as he wielded two curved swords like crescent moons, were faster than any other user he had ever seen. Was he faster than Pei Wu, and was his attack stronger than Agromni Igor’s?

It was not possible to compare the two people directly because Leeha did not see them fight a chimera, but he could guess because he saw Pei Wu and Igor fight at a close distance several times.

“Didn’t you say you needed the items?”

“Oh, ah.”

Leeha, who was observing Cushy’s movements as if possessed, quickly moved around and looted the chimera’s skin fragments.

He didn’t know which piece belonged to which chimera, so he picked up about ten of the larger ones without poison. In the meantime, cushy dealt with about 30 chimera left.

『You have obtained Ghibrid’s Fragmented Creature Sample – Ant’s Shoulder』

『You have obtained Ghibrid’s Suture Chimera – third troll’s face.』

『You have obtained Ghibrid’s Chimera – the brain of a vampire who lost intelligence.』

(To be continued…)
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“It’s finished!”

“Let’s go.”

Whiiik! Kuzy moved from the spot where he fought the chimera toward Leeha with a single step. Leeha almost lost his mind once again at the sight of him traversing the same distance as a magician’s blink. What was the identity of this person?

“What are you doing?”

“Ah, let’s go.”

Leeha quickly followed Kuzy. There was no need to worry about what would happen if the chimeras chased them. They just sprayed poison in place as if they were angry.

“Grrrrr-……”

“Grrr,g-!”

Even while Leeha was distracted by Cushy’s movement and the names of the items, Leeha did not lose sight of the chimera. Their weaknesses were their relatively slow speed and low resistance to fire.

‘I will have to prepare that too.’

As long as the name Ghibrid has been confirmed, it was certain. The pack of chimeras, which were difficult for ordinary close or long-distance dealers to deal with, will definitely reappear, and until then, Leeha had to prepare.

“Phew……. Thank you.”

“Uh.”

Cushy nodded at Leeha’s word of thanks. After seeing Cushy deal with the chimera, it suddenly became difficult for Leeha to deal with Cushy casually.

‘What is it? Is he a ranker? No, he had never heard of the name Cushy. Still, Leeha searched everywhere until the top 50 rankers of the national war. As expected, isn’t he an outsider? Well, since he said he’s level 183-’

Leeha had worked diligently to investigate rankers to find a threatening enemy among Minis users. Of course, cushy wasn’t one of those names. The ranking itself was only based on level, so there was no place for a level 183 user to cut in.

‘He’s not in the top 100, but in terms of movement, he is in the top 10. At his level, even if he is an outsider, his name would have spread quite a bit…’

In other words, he avoided all of the chimera’s attacks while he only showed one attack.

In addition to their normal attack, chimeras had an acidic poison spit.


‘It’s not like I could stop it with fire all over my body like Koma…… No, he didn’t even use a skill in the first place.’

Then, were all of those attacks normal attacks? Even if he turned off the Combat Assistance System, was it possible to move like that? Leeha suddenly imagined what would happen if Pei Wu or Tale fought against Kuzy. Although Tale was 5th dan in kumdo, and Pei Wu was the best martial artist in China, Leeha was not able to easily decide on who to bet on.

“It is my turn now.”

“Yes? Ah. Yes. Let’s go, I don’t know what kind of help I will be to Kuzy-nim-”

“You will be very helpful.”

“Thank you for thinking highly of me.”

Would an expert like Cushy be defenseless while doing certain actions? So, he’s asking for protection? Leeha could not read the expression of the man with a red-shaved head who still looked a little angry.

‘It’s near the dragon’s lair-…. Well, he could do all sorts of things. I think he can do everything by himself without me.’

Leeha followed Cushy and checked the quest window. At least, it was clear that he was able to clear Bottleneck’s quest.

‘It is a pity that I couldn’t check the experience. I should have checked that first as soon as the chimeras died.’

The first thing that Leeha wanted to check was his level. However, in addition to catching the griffin, and maybe because Leeha had caught the chimeras alone, his experience had already increased compared to when he left Radcliffe.

When Cushy caught two chimeras in the short time between loot items, did Leeha’s experience point increase?

‘If it went up, he’s really 183, if not, it must mean he’s at a higher level than that.’

There shouldn’t be a difference of 20 levels between them. Leeha peered at Cushy’s back, who was ahead.

“Cushy-nim. Did you participate in the national war?”

“I couldn’t participate because of the expedition.”

“I see.”

The reason may be a lie, but Leeha thought it would be true that he couldn’t participate. If a person like that participated, rumors would have spread. Leeha shuddered for a while, imagining that Cushy, who had discovered his sniping spot, was running at high speed.

‘Ah, right. I don’t know about outsiders-’

While moving toward the dragon’s lair, Leeha recalled other people. Aside from the rankers, didn’t he have other acquaintances who have a lot of information or data about outsiders?


Leeha: Kijung-ah!

The first one was the guild master of Byulcho and his younger cousin.

Leeh: Ram Hwayeon-ssi, what are you doing?

The second was Hwahong’s guild master.

Leeha: Fernand-nim, hello.

The third is the Pioneering King.

Leeha: Kidd, are you busy?

The fourth was one of the outsiders and of the Three Musketeers.

Leeha quickly whispered to the four people. In addition to the widely known information, he quickly summarized his situation to those he had contacted. He even confirmed that a party was established, so his ID was definitely Cushy. His level was 183, but he couldn’t believe it. For customization, he looked like a human with red shaved hair, but the size was set to be quite large. His weapons were two crescent moon-shaped swords. It was possible that he was a tank dealer or melee dealer job…….

He waited for the replies while conveying the information he had gathered while they worked together.

“How far is the dragon’s lair?”

“It’s nearby. We will arrive in 30 minutes.”

30 minutes, Leeha whispered to the four people again. The fact is that he only had 30 minutes left before arriving at the dragon’s lair with a very untrustworthy person.

He hoped that any clue would come out of it, but no satisfactory answer came.

Kijung: Hyung! Kuzy? Kuzy? My guild members have never heard of him. Since Biyemi said he didn’t know him, he’s definitely not a ranker. An outsider…… Or maybe a former ranker who created a new character like Biyemi?

Ram Hwayeon: It’s not on the list of outsiders I asked Jachung to investigate. Is he that strong? If he is strong enough to surprise you, Ha Leeha, he is definitely high-level. Could you introduce him to our guild-

Fernand: Does anyone know about the dragon’s lair? Amazing! What are you investigating around there? Ah, I want to go there, if only I have time now! No, if you finish first my achievement will be lost- Ah, I have never heard of the name Coetzee. If he knows enough about dragon lairs and is at the level of exploring areas around them, he’s probably going to be my rival….

Kidd: Did you say he moves fast? He won’t be able to dodge the 『Crimson Gecko』s bullets anyway. Did you find any traces of Bluebeard? Hoo, I couldn’t find it either, but I will eventually find it.

‘Kidd, this guy, only has the stats on his eyes right now.’

All four people did not know anything about him, and everyone could only evaluate Coetzee based on the information Leeha had given them. The most reasonable guess was also Biyemi’s. It was possible that he had recreated his character after deleting the first one. Was Coetzee really that kind of person? Incredible movements that do not suit his awkward tone implied that he was a solo player, so his reputation did not spread.


“We have arrived.”

In any case, he did not have the time to think about it now.

“Is the dragon’s lair here?”

“Exactly, this is where the dragon’s barrier begins. The moment a being at a certain level of mana crosses this place, the dragon’s alarm magic will ring.”

Two people stood on the ridge of the Red Mountains, in front of a point that was not marked on Leeha’s map

“Indeed.”

“Can you see it?”

“What…… I think I know. Is it like this very thin, imperceptible membrane?”

A barrier that seemed to have been made of film from between the eggshell and the egg white, only thinner and more transparent.

A highly transparent film-like surface spread over the entire area, to the extent that it was sometimes invisible, and only occasionally visible to Leeha’s eyes.

Coetzee made a surprised expression toward Leeha for a moment. This was the first change on his face, he always had an angry expression.

“Ah, but do you know what kind of dragon it is?”

“Bronze dragon.”

“Ah…”

This time Leeha was surprised again. Even Fernand didn’t know what kind of dragon it was, did this guy really have more regional information than the Pioneering King?

‘Fernand did not reveal all the unexplored lands alone, so it’s no surprise that there are people like him……. That’s amazing.’

Most importantly, Leeha was somewhat relieved at the word Bronze Dragon.

If it was a Bronze Dragon, isn’t it a metal-type dragon?

50% intimacy with all metal dragons was automatically added to those who have received the blessing of the Gold Dragon, Bailephus.

In other words, the dragon would not spit out its breath as soon as it saw Leeha.

“Okay, what do we do now? What is Coetzee-nim going to do for the time being? Well, you asked me to deal with monsters, but there are no monsters around?”

“Of course. The dragon’s mana must be coming out of the lair. Normal monsters wouldn’t dare to approach it.”

“Huh?”

What was he talking about? Leeha tilted his head for a moment as he listened to Coetzee’s words. What was the reason they had come this far? Coetzee had asked Leeha to protect him while he was doing something.

But there were no monsters?

‘Does he know what he’s talking about? Or was there a translation problem?’

While Leeha thought about it, coetzee rummaged through his bag. Leeha was taken aback by his action, but nothing happened.

“I have to investigate from now on, so just go inside the barrier and stay there for a while.”

“Yes? D-Didn’t you say that the dragon will notice mana if someone went inside? Wasn’t there an alarm magic or something-”

“That is what you have to do. Only when the dragon moves can I do my job.”

“Then I? You clearly said earlier that it was not dangerous!”

“It is not dangerous. If the dragon wants to harm you, you can run away immediately.”

‘Huh, really……’

Leeha suppressed the desire to just use a teleport scroll.

Anyway, his purpose related to the chimera quest has already been achieved. Traces of Bluebeard had been found, but the range is much wider. He could look for it anywhere else except the Red Mountains.

‘Yeah, but to do that again…it bothers me. Didn’t he get help anyway? And if it is an outsider who could ‘instantly’ dispatch two chimeras’.

Leeha judged that even if the conversation did not work well, there was no need for him to act.

“Okay. But I’m really going to run away immediately, so don’t trust me that much.”

“Bronze Dragons are good, so it should be fine. It will only take a moment.”

“Since it’s a metal dragon, there shouldn’t be any-”

Leeha checked the Black Bass’ magazine, inserted it, and slowly approached the barrier. Kuzy was looking from a place some distance from Leeha.

‘Come to think of it, I know that the Bronze Dragon is good. Well, that’s what I am interested in, and I can find out his information if I investigate that. Even Biyemi-nim knew to some extent.’

Gulp, gulp, gulp.

After swallowing dryly in front of the barrier, he moved his feet forward. He felt a lukewarm energy run through his body.

“Oh……. Is this the end? He said there would be alarm magic, so I wondered if it would ring a bell or something.”

However, nothing happened. There was no special notification window popping up, and no special noise was heard.

“What are you doing now? How much longer are we going to be here- huh?”

No, one thing did happen. Looking back, nothing came into sight.

“Kuzy…? Kuzy-nim? Kuzi-ssi?”

The red-shaved head that had been standing at a distance from Leeha had disappeared.

“Kuz-”

Shwaaaaaa—-!

“-eup?”

Blue-green light emanated from Leeha’s back, who was looking outside the barrier.

What caught Leeha’s eyes, who hurriedly turned around, was the face of an American young man in his early 20s.

“This! I came because I felt Bailephus-nim’s mana…… human? Excuse me, who are you?”

A long blue-green hair that players had never seen before, geometric patterns embroidered on his white robes, and the long staff he was holding made him look like a magician.

His long, straight hair that reached his waist and his sculpted face made Leeha confused for a moment, but his voice was clearly that of a man.

“Oh, ooh, ohh- who are you?”

Even as Leeha asked, he could feel it instinctively.

And seeing the other person being polite to him, Leeha felt a kind of relief and anxiety at the same time.

“I am the owner of this lair……. I am called Blaugrunn, the Bronze Dragon. Perhaps you are a messenger sent by Lord Bailephus…

“Dragon! Human?! Human- not human?”

He was relieved because the Bronze Dragon, which has a lair in the Red Mountains, was showing a kinder attitude than expected.

And anxiety, what was with the dragon’s current appearance? As Leeha stuttered, blaugrun let out a wild laugh.

“Haha, that’s why I changed because I couldn’t surprise Lord Bailephus. Wouldn’t it be rude to show my body in front of a big adult? My real self is-”

“Dragon can transform into a human-”

(To be continued…)
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 At that moment, an ominous feeling flowed like an electric current in Leeha’s head. He knew about transformation magic. But how did it happen? How was this possible? Was it possible to interact with humans, no, users like this?! He had no answer to that question, but he instinctively knew the result. Why did he talk to Leeha in Radcliffe? How did he know where the chimera was? Why did he push Leeha into the barrier? And another thing, why were the other dragons unable to recognize the people who received Bailephus’ blessing?

“Dodge, blaugrun!!!!”

Kyaaaaaaaa——–!!!

Immediately after Leeha shouted, a roar that tore through the clouds spread in the sky. The pupils of the bronze dragon Blaugrunn dilated. A red-colored body with four wings flew up in the sky covering the sun. Leeha blamed himself for not noticing earlier. Was he an outsider? A ranker? That was not possible!

Kuzi.

“Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh!”

『Thank you, Bailephus’ dog!』 The chest of the red dragon, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, swelled up.

The red particles gathered in front of his mouth to form the breath of a red dragon that was not weaker than Bailephus’s breath.

“K-Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, why are you here–keup!”

The bronze dragon Blaugrunn was unable to finish his sentence because of the powerful tackle he felt on his waist. Puk-!

“This isn’t the time, quick!”

Leeha made an accurate decision to tackle Blaugrunn and roll. It was because he instantly figured out what Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh plan was. The breath of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who dominated the sky like a cloud, was released.

It was fortunate that Leeha had already experienced a breath before. He was able to roughly create a route in his head to avoid the breath that was close to linear magic.

“Force Barrier!”

A pale blue-green light covered Leeha and Blaugrunn.

However, Leeha had no intention of relying on the barrier from the beginning. The red dragon’s flame breath already poured down.

‘Please hold on even for one second!’

With Blaugrunn still bewildered, Leeha ran out of the barrier and turned vertically.

“Heup!”

Then, holding onto the shoulder of the bronze dragon in human form, he threw himself into a bush. Two people rolled down a slope. In an instant, the red dragon’s flame breath assaulted them.


It can be said that they survived thanks to the 『Advanced Force Barrier』 that lasted 1.1 seconds from the high-temperature flame that made the surface of the shield boil.

Hwarurururuk一!

As soon as their bodies were thrown, the flame breath raked the ground.

The sand and soil that should not be burning burned. The flame could not be described simply as high heat or ultra-high heat.

『Keulkeul, you didn’t just get mana from that bastard. Did he tell you how to deal with a breath? It’s useless anyway. 

‘Mana Blocking’.』

『The abnormal status ‘Mana Block’ has been applied.』

『You cannot go beyond the restricted area for 30 minutes.』

(If you have a higher ability than the caster, the barrier can be broken.)

『The abnormal status ‘Space Shackles’ has been applied.』

『All space movements within the range are restricted for 15 minutes.』

『The abnormal status ‘Communication Interference’ has been applied.』

『All group chats, including whispers, are prohibited for 15 minutes.』

Flaap- Flaap-!

The four wings alternately held Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body in the air. Seeing Leeha and Blaugrunn rolling down the slope, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh quickly used Mana Block.

『You can’t break through space, bronze youngling! You won’t even be able to contact Bailephus helpless human! If you obediently surrender, I will give you a painless death. No, even though it was a coincidence, should I let Bailephus’ dog live in exchange for the bronze youngling’s head? Kuhuhut.』

“Damn it…”

The bronze dragon Blaugrunn said that he came out after feeling the mana of the gold dragon Bailephus. It was a dragon’s ability to detect the type of mana that has entered his lair.

It was impossible for a dragon, like Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh to not have known. If Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh himself entered, blaugrun would have immediately notified the metal dragons, and the current situation would not have occurred.

The red dragon would not have been able to use any human. If a normal human had crossed the barrier, he could have been immediately killed in all sorts of ways, or he could have appeared in his original form.


In other words, this incident had been an inevitable fate, from the moment Leeha was associated with the Red Mountains to find the traces of Bluebeard and destroy the chimeras of Ghibrid.

‘That means that he planned this far as soon as he saw me at Radcliffe! This is so crazy- I knew I could party with NPCs, but I never thought that a dragon would turn into a human and have a party with me.’

It wasn’t like Leeha made any quick-witted move. He did not take any precautions. He knew about partying with an NPC through his party play with Browless, but he did not know that it was possible to be in a party with a dragon that was treated as a ‘monster’.

It was possible because it was a dragon, which was between a monster and NPC, but anyway, it was unfair.

“Teleport has been blocked, and it has become impossible to contact Bailephus-nim.”

“T-then, what should we do? If Blaugrunn-ssi fights with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh-”

“It’s only been 300 years since I became an adult dragon. I can’t stop Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who is already an ancient class.”

The bronze dragon’s face turned blue. Like the abnormal message shown to Leeha, the dragon also accurately grasped the current situation. Did that mean that they would fight 1:1? The long-time enemy of the gold dragon Bailephus, whom Blaugrunn called an ‘ancient’, is the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. It was a daunting opponent for a youngling to handle.

“Huuu, huu, huu. I am sorry, blaugrun-nim. Because of me-”

“No. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh whereabouts were unknown, but if I was more vigilant-”

“-If we could hold on for 15 minutes.”

It was true that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was too much to handle for Blaugrunn. However, that was when it was 1-on-1.

“What?”

The distorted face of the bronze dragon was filled with doubt. Even in the midst of that, his sculpted face did not change.

“That is the only way we can live.”

Leeha’s eyes flashed. Was he going to get swept away by the red dragon’s plan? He couldn’t. Of course, he had no Force Barrier. He couldn’t even use the Soul Link skill. Even the bombs were all used up. Perhaps Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh thoroughly tried to make Leeha use up all of his skills ever since the battle against the chimera.

Click-!

“I won’t obediently die just like that.”

Nevertheless, Leeha decided to resist. Against one of the worst dragons ever on Middle Earth.

『Won’t you come out, bronze youngling, and human! Will you choose pain-filled resistance instead of a painless death?』


Flap- Flaaap-!

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh looked at the bushes where Leeha and Blaugrunn hid. His attitude could be seen as the leisure of the winner.

『Okay. I will not give you a second chance, blame your lingering feelings and die.』

Heuuuuuuup-!

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh began to breathe again. And Leeha, who was behind the bushes, watched the scene. Through ‘Mana Clairvoyance’. An extremely large amount of mana whirlwind formed in front of the red dragon’s face, even a breath wasn’t invincible, it also had a weakness.

‘Just like now, mana Freeze!’

A black rod poked between the bushes. The dragon’s movement was restricted until the breath was gathered and released. How much bigger was Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body than the gold dragon Bailephus’s? It meant that for the current Leeha, he could hit him even with his eyes closed!

Baaaaaang———!

A bullet that flew faster than the gunshot pierced the red dragon’s shield and pierced his scales.

『Kaaaaaaa——……! My dragon scale-』

The red dragon, who was about to release its breath, screamed.

All of the mana whirlwind gathered in front of its face disappeared. It was not dispelled. No, rather, it could be said that it was the most primitive dispel.

The dragon’s breath required concentration; if that was the case, he could shoot to prevent him from concentrating!

“Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh screamed……?”

“Try it, quickly!”

“What?”

The bronze dragon looked at Leeha and shook his head. What was this human? Is he really human? He could feel Bailephus’ mana, but did he use the mana of the ‘ancient’ dragon to attack? Besides, what can I try? As countless thoughts passed through the bronze dragon’s head, Leeha was eager. Leeha’s bullets were not ordinary. Hopefully, it will be eaten by the red dragon too!

『To pierce the dragon scale, aren’t you a golden bastard! You won’t be able to die in peace! Flame Strike』

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who managed to keep his balance in mid-air by flapping his wings, chanted a spell.

However, nothing happened. The only sound that could be heard in this space was the friction of the bolt being pulled once more, and the cheering voice of Leeha.

“Yeeeeeees! It works! Then eat this again!”

Baaaaaang-!

Another bullet hit the red dragon’s wings.

The Black Bass’ bullet, which dug into the seam of one of the four wings, made the red dragon bleed.

『Kaaaaaah-! What is this, the mana?! How can this-』

“Damn you, do you think it is a regular musket?”

Just in case.

Since it was a skill that came from a 『Legendary』 class weapon, it was a feeble guess that it would also be effective against a dragon. Leeha’s gamble succeeded. The Mana Freeze bullet created by the 『Legendary Black Bass』 had enough effect on the dragon.

The bronze dragon was as shocked as the red dragon, who was hit. How could a human dare seal a dragon’s mana?

“Even though he was careless, he is still an ancient red dragon… Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh mana….”

“It’s not the time to be saying that! Q-Quickly! If it’s a dragon, it won’t last long! Any magic! Please use it! Make it rain!”

Under normal circumstances, it would take 15 minutes, but he had already experienced the inconsistency of effects depending on the target, sage Hyein’s advanced stop magic worked on Baileipus for only 4 seconds, there was no guarantee that the Mana Freeze bullet would last long.

“Ah, if that’s the case-”

If he was human, he would still be dumbfounded, but a dragon was a dragon. Aside from the curiosity on ‘how Leeha did it’, blaugrun clearly knew what he had to do in the immediate situation.

Blaugrunn raised his staff and aimed it at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. The magic was shot in an instant at the red giant, who still had its magic sealed.

If the red dragon had flames, what did the bronze dragon have?

“Call Lightning, energy Wave.”

It was the lighting system. Lightning sparks fell from the sky and the electric shock wrapped around Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s whole body!

Bzzzzzt-!

Blaugrunn did not miss the moment when Kuzgunaksh’s body was paralyzed by lightning magic. Double casting was cast once again. No, it was more like a quad-casting. In fact, it was a penta-casting.

“Quadruple Lightning Bolt, thunder.”

『Keuuuuuu-! You’re pretty good for a Bronze youngling- Kuoooot!』

Four lightning bolts the size of Leeha’s body were shot, and a cloud soaked in lightning covered Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body. Even after getting hit by a lightning attack, comparable to a natural disaster, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh did not die.

“This isn’t the time to say something like that!” A black rod pointed at him, whose mouth was still moving. It was Leeha’s Black Bass.

『This guy-!』

Realizing that Black Bass’ muzzle was pointed at him, Kuzgunakh hurriedly struggled but to no avail.

“Be still, Kuzgunash. Electric Wave!”

There wasn’t much the Ancient Dragon with sealed mana could do.

He wasn’t against a physical faction but from the magic faction. Once again, the bronze dragon’s target was precisely a single place in the dragon’s body.

“Calm Mind.”

Leeha’s line of sight pointed directly at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s head. Click, Leeha’s finger lightly pulled the trigger.

Baaaaaang ——!

A bullet flew between the red dragon’s eyebrows. Blood, redder than his red body, gushed out like a fountain from his forehead.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s wings stopped flapping his giant body fell to the ground. Could it be that he could no longer fly? Keuuung…….

Red dust rose from a spot not far from Leeha and Blaugrunn. (To be continued…)
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 “Haa…… Haa……”

Leeha could not take his eyes off it for a long while. Is he really dead? Was that a red dragon? However, it was not possible to determine the falling point because Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh did not fall in a straight line.

Fortunately, mana clairvoyance did not capture its figure. The red dragon’s huge body was nowhere to be seen.

“I can’t feel…… Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s mana.”

The bronze dragon’s eyes widened.

Even the bronze dragon, someone who knew a dragon by its mana, could not help but be surprised. It was because he knew exceptionally well what it meant to not feel mana.

“Is Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh… dead?”

The mad chromatic dragon that the Gold Dragon Bailephus was so wary of. Did he catch the tyrannical red dragon who tried to awaken the six-headed dragon Tiamat?!

The corner of Leeha’s mouth began to rise slowly. Seeing that, blaugrun changed his appearance.

“Huh?!”

There was a subtle turquoise light, and before Leeha knew it, a turquoise dragon, not a handsome sculptured man, was sitting next to him.

He was definitely smaller than Bailephus and he was a little more than half the size of the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, which was bigger than Bailephus.

『Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn bows to his lifesaver.』

“Oh, ohh? Yes?”

Then, he bent his long neck downward. It was the utmost courtesy a dragon could have for a human. It wasn’t just because of the gold dragon Bailephus’ mana that was in Leeha’s body. It was a kind of awe at the human who showed incredible performance against an ancient dragon. A fight that even an adult dragon, like himself, tried to give up.

“A-As for me. Sorry for causing trouble-”

Leeha also bowed his head toward the huge dragon. However, they missed one thing, they should have thought about why Bailephus couldn’t find Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

“Kyahahahaha! You’ve finally polymorphed Bronze youngling!”

Pasasasak-!

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, polymorphed into human form, emerged from the bushes. His two swords glistened in the sunlight.


『This! How!』

Blaugrunn hurriedly flew into the air. However. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s movement was faster. It was so fast that he overtook the flying dragon in one leap!

“Eeek—”

Bang-!

Leeha quickly took out the Hummingbird-pistol and Needlegun-pistol and fired at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who was floating in the air, but he couldn’t match the movement that was faster than Pei Wu.

Despite quickly reloading, Leeha could not hide his dismay.

‘What? Why is he alive?! It got its head pierced!’

He even saw its mouth pierced! There was no way that the bullet that pierced the shield and the dragon scale did not hit. There was enough kinetic energy even if it penetrated the middle of its forehead to split the brain inside that big head. But how? How could he still be alive and move?

‘Besides, I couldn’t even see his mana and even the bronze dragon was unable to feel his mana-’

However, that was too much disrespect for an ancient dragon. Why did the gold dragon Bailephus say he couldn’t find the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh? It was simple. It was because his mana could not be detected using a normal method. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was using his breath when Leeha hit it before.

It wasn’t because of the mass of mana inside the red dragon’s huge body that Leeha was able to get the timing correctly, but because of the mana gathering in front of it.

What about when it was in human form? Leeha had never used Mana Clairvoyance while Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh walked around in human form before. Of course, Leeha couldn’t even think of that.

It was not just Mana Clairvoyance.

It was only natural that the bronze dragon, who was only an adult class, would not be able to find the mana of the red dragon, which even the Gold Dragon, who is one of the same Ancient Dragon, could not detect.

‘Shit! Is that why Bailephus also asked to be contacted right away?.’

Against an ancient dragon, not only would you need an iron head but also an iron tail. (TL: 철두철미 – To be thoroughly prepared.

철두 – Iron Head, 철미 – Iron Tail)

Now, he had to pay the price for the carelessness of getting happy for thinking his attack worked and dealt damage.

『Electric Chain-』

“Hap!”


Chains of electricity flew off, but they hit nothing because Kuzganak’sh, floating in the air, kicked the air and changed direction. It was a movement similar to the Air Step skill that Pei Wu had shown some time ago.

‘Besides, it’s harder to aim because it changed to its human form. I’d rather it be in dragon form earlier-’

Baaaaaang-!

Black Bass’ gunshot rang out furiously, but Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh twisted in the air to avoid it as if he was expecting it.

The ancient dragon was more threatening when it was in its human form than when it was in dragon form.

“Give me your head, bronze youngling!”

『That’s not possible! Heeeeup-!』

Flap, flap, flap!

Turquoise light began to gather in front of Blaugrunn’s mouth as he flew into the air with the use of wings and mana.

If gold and red dragons had flame breath, bronze dragons had all kinds of different types of magic system breaths.

From the mass of mana gathered in front of his mouth,

bzz bzz-! When the sparks started to fly, the bronze dragon let out a lightning breath.

『Paaakaaaai——–』

There was an extremely loud sound. The deafening sound of lightning breath spat out at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

“Blink!”

However, those who locked the space could still use space magic. The lightning breath hit past the spot where the red-shaven-haired man had disappeared. It had enough power to burn all the trees standing there, but that power didn’t even inflict serious damage on the enemy.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh appeared above Blaugrunn’s head.

“Kuhahaha! Isn’t this just a useless head!? I will put it to good use!”

『Keuk- this!』

“No!!!”


Leeha got down on one knee and lifted the Black Bass, but he couldn’t pull the trigger. It was because the bronze dragon, with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh on its head, was shaking its neck vigorously.

He wouldn’t be able to hit Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh in that situation! If he fired ceaselessly, the bronze dragon might die!

‘Shit-’

However, he had to shoot. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh also swung his curved swords as the two of them flew into the sky.

“Give me your life!”

『Energy Wa-』

Baaaaang———–!

Different from the shouts and sounds that reverberated in the air.

Claang, there were glittering fragments of blades in the sky. What he chose at the last moment was not Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh head.

It was the two swords he lifted.

“Kiiit?!”

『-ve!』

“Kuwaaaak!”

After 0.1 seconds of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh panicking after getting his weapons broken, blaugrun’s magic was cast.

Even Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s short hair twitched and stood out in the lightning that seemed to completely melt its human body.

“Keu, hehe, if only you were ancient- if only you were ancient! That would have stopped me!”

『What-』

However, the perfect paralysis effect did not happen. The movement was slow, but Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was inching toward Blaugrunn’s giant body.

‘Damn it, what the fuck-’

Leeha quickly changed the magazine and aimed at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh again. However, it was already too late.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, not needing a sword, dug into the bronze dragon’s dragon scale with his bare hand.

『————-!!』

The bronze dragon’s death wail resounded.

The red dragon in its human form completely shattered the Bronze Dragon’s cervical vertebrae.

Like picking tomatoes, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh separated the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn’s head from its body.

Splash- splash- splash…….

Blood poured out from the bronze dragon’s head in his right hand. He beheaded Blaugrunn with his bare hands.

“Waaaaaaa- “

Click, baaaaaaang- baaaaang—-!! Click,

Leeha screamed madly and alternately pulled the bolt and the trigger. It looked like he was shooting at random, but all the bullets were aimed only at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

“Kuhuhu, huhu, good, good! Now, I will put an end to you, Bailephus’ dog!”

However, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was not hit. He kicked off from the body of the Bronze Dragon, which was about to fall, jumped up, and performed a miracle of changing direction in mid-air as he approached Leeha.

Should Leeha just watch as the red dragon approached him as if it was expecting his incredibly quick aim?

At that time, a voice calling for Leeha rang out.

『That- I will not allow it- Giga Thunder……!』

Did the bronze dragon’s head in Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s right hand speak? Or did it come from the torso of the falling bronze dragon?

Leeha was unable to distinguish. The important thing was that the final magic shot was fired from the falling body of the bronze dragon!

“Kuooooot, that stings! This youngling that just barely got into adulthood, had this much in its dragon heart? Kuhuhut.”

And it was the fact that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body was extremely slowed down by the lightning magic.

“Blaugrunn-ssi!”

『It’s thanks to the dragon heart- but- Baile-』

A broken voice could be sparsely heard. Should he immediately open fire on Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh?! Leeha did not do so. A more reliable method was needed. How long did he wait for this moment, he had continued to count the duration of the magic that the red dragon used. 2 seconds, 1 second-

Leeh: Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh has been found, battle!!!

Zero.

Would his whisper be understood right away? However, the target receiving the whisper was Bailephus. His mind easily exceeded Leeha’s expectations. A brilliant golden light exploded in front of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who was heading toward Leeha with the head of the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn.

“Heu, this, this.”

“Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh!”

A human wearing golden armor all over his body swung his sword and shield as he appeared in front of Leeha.

Baaaaaang—–……!

The shockwave generated by the collision of the two beings pushed away all the surrounding dust. The battle between the two dragons, one in the form of a golden knight and one in the form of a red warrior took place in an instant and ended in an instant. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh did not feel the need to continue the battle any longer.

“Kuhahaha, let’s see what happens, Bailephus’ dog, let’s see what happens! Someday, I will definitely pay you back for this humiliation!”

“Stop- Blaugrunn!”

Hwiiiik-!

Bailephus tried to chase after Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who quickly tried to run away. However, it saw the body of its metal dragonkin with its head ripped off. In place of Bailephus, who had stopped the chase, Leeha shot the Black Bass toward Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

Babam-!

He had heard the sound of achievement for a moment, but it wasn’t the time to pay attention to that.

“Blaugrunn, blaugrun, can you hear me?”

『Bail-』

“Momentary Revival.”

Hwiiiiis-!

The Gold Dragon’s highest level of recovery magic was cast.

The Ancient Dragon’s top-grade magic, which can temporarily revive even the dead, was able to maintain the life of a dragon whose head had been ripped off.

‘Crazy…… Is he bringing the dead back to life?’

Unlike Leeha, who was shocked, Bailephus was impatient.

Leeha wondered if Alexander was offline because he didn’t see him. At any rate, Bailephus conversed with his headless kin.

“What happened? How did this happen? Is your heart okay?”

『Yes, it’s fine. Forgive me for greeting you like this, elder.』

A voice came out of the bronze dragon’s chest. Only then did Leeha know.

‘Dragon heart….. right. The weak point is not in the head.’

It is said that the dragon heart, which served as both brain and heart, was their weakness. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh also did not die after getting hit by the Black Bass in the head.

A part of the dragon’s head was destroyed, but it was restored in an instant because of the Dragon Heart! It was one of the dragons’ fraudulent ways to heal their wounds.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Even if its head is torn off……?’

“It’s okay, it’s okay. Let’s talk. How the hell did you fight Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh? Why did you fight without contacting me first!”

『 Although I still have my Dragon Heart… I don’t have much time, so please listen to the situation from the person blessed by the elder.』

Listening to Blaugrunn’s words, Leeha was able to confirm that it was only able to restore some lost functions and regeneration was impossible because the bronze dragon’s head was completely torn off. Bailephus made a pitying expression as he listened to Blaugrunn’s words. Then Leeha looked back for a moment.

“Ha Leeha you-”

『You did a great job against Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. I mean, much more than me.』

Blaugrunn spoke to Leeha in a very warm voice. The bronze dragon did not blame or criticize Leeha or assumed that Leeha dragged Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh into his lair.

The bronze dragon was a good dragon and already a guess about his fate, and the wisdom of a dragon that had reached adulthood was a little more advanced.

“I understand. I will respect your words. Then…… I will leave you with your last words. I, Gold Dragon Bailephus, a member of the metal dragon Clan, will attest to the will of the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn.”

『Human, is your name Ha Leeha?』

“Ah, that…… yes. Blaugrunn-ssi. I’m sorry.”

Leeha took off his hat and bowed his head quietly toward his body. Blaugrunn did not blame him, but Leeha had no choice but to blame himself.

The red dragon used Leeha to catch the Bronze Dragon, and Leeha was helplessly defeated by it.

It happened because he didn’t know, but what happened happened.

『I have seen all the amazing- attacks you have shown. Perhaps, you can be a strength to Bailephus-nim, more than I am.』

“……I am deeply ashamed of myself.”

『What is my lifesaver saying?』

Even though he had no head, blaugrun’s words seemed to have a tinge of laughter. Accepting death, the dragon continued to speak slowly.

『I ask the human Ha Leeha…… I hope that you will become the strength of Bailephus-nim on my behalf. Please get rid of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.』

“What?”


Shoooook-!

A notification window appeared in front of Leeha. In addition to the achievement right before, what was it this time? However, he couldn’t concentrate.

『Of course, it is impossible for you alone. I- my strength- will be with you.』

With him? What did that mean? Bailephus understood before Leeha could.

“Blaugrunn!”

The gold dragon’s eyes widened, but Blaugrunn’s voice remained calm. How could a dying dragon be with Leeha?

The bronze dragon had already made up its mind, and the gold dragon knew it as well.

『Bailephus-nim, I am sorry for asking you to attest… Please hand over my Dragon Heart to the human Ha Leeha. And please testify at the metal dragon Clan meeting that the inheritance of my Dragon Heart is legitimate and deserved.』

The only one who was surprised by the completely unexpected words was the person concerned.

『Bronze Dragon ‘Blaugrunn”s Revenge』

Description: ‘Do not tell Bailephus-nim.’ The current Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh might be stronger than the elder. It would be impossible to stop him alone……

What’s needed to stop it is a blow that could make its Dragon Heart crash, a blow that no dragon can withstand. If even a tiny fraction of my Dragon Heart collides with its Dragon Heart, it will not be able to do anything.’

Blaugrunn is estimating his life.

Rather than forcibly prolonging the ember of his life that is dying. The purpose of Metal Dragons is to protect the continent. Take his Dragon Heart and create a bullet that will be shot at the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s heart.

Content: Hit Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s heart with Blaugrunn’s heart.

Reward: Affinity with all Metal Dragons +20%

Authorized to acquire 3 required items from the lair of Bronze Dragon

Advanced Compensation: 2 Bronze Dragon’s scale

Condition for Failure: When an attack fails, Bailephus’ Death, Tiamat’s Summoning

Penalty for failure: Affinity with all Metal Dragons -40%, achievement: Dragon’s Wrath


– Would you like to accept?

Turquoise light emanated from the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn’s chest.

The dragon heart, which was like a lump made of light, seemed to be squeezed by an invisible hand, and then it changed into a shape familiar to Leeha before he knew it

『It is in the same shape as the ammunition used in your weapon. Pierce Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh heart… with this.』

“But I…… this is a bit too much-”

Leeha hurriedly read the quest window. It was a quest that was nothing special. Find Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and shoot the bullet made of Dragon Heart into its heart.

‘However, I only have one chance. Can I hit Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who has incredible movement?’

What if it was in its human form?

It showed tremendous movements even when it was in its dragon form. Additionally, he not only needed to hit Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh once, he also had to prevent Tiamat’s summoning and Bailephus’ death.

‘Although there’s an advance compensation, the penalty for failure is quite intimidating.’

In addition to the intimacy with all Metal Dragons going down, there was also the achievement named ‘Dragon’s Wrath’. Based on the name, no matter what kind of dragon it was, it would make them want to chew and eat Leeha as soon as they see him.

『Please.』

The bronze dragon pleaded.

Bluebeard-related quest, the word of the Demon King’s Fragment Ghibrid, arcane Sniper, and Kaztor’s Laboratory already made Leeha very busy……. However, Leeha couldn’t ignore the bronze dragon’s words.

Most importantly, a sense of responsibility weighed heavily on him.

“Okay. It is my fault for not seeing through Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh scheme from the beginning. No matter what. I will make sure that Blaugrunn-ssi’s will is fulfilled.”

『 I thought you were a good person from the first moment I saw you. It’s a shame if I had more time, or if this didn’t happen, we could have been good friends.』

The smiling Blaugrunn’s face came to Leeha’s mind.

The handsome face of a sculpted man that should have been attached to the head that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh ripped off.

Bailephus quietly listened to the conversation between Leeha and Blaugrunn before opening his mouth.


“Is that what you meant, blaugrun?”

『Yes, elder. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh…… is stronger than expected. Don’t be ashamed to have helpers, please- please, please do your best to protect order.』

“I get it. I promise.”

『Then- I will now go to eternal rest…….』

Syaaaaaat-!

Light flowed from the bronze dragon’s body.

Like water leaking from shattered glass, the light emanating from his body signaled the end of his life.

“I am sorry.”

Bailephus’ eyes were wet.

After only 10 seconds of light being emitted, what remained of the bronze dragon’s body was two turquoise scales and a bullet that shone on its own.

『Achievement: Enter the Dragon Gate- Metal(A+)』

Congratulations! You have received a Dragon Heart and are qualified to inherit the power of the dragon. Metal Dragons in Middle Earth will like you, who have been recognized as family and help you inherit and maintain the power of the dragon, both inside and outside. If you, still a carp, completely cross the Dragon Gate, how will you change? The dragons are curiously watching.

Reward: 18 Stat points

Affinity with all Metal Dragons +10%. Affinity with all Chromatic Dragons -10%

You are the second registrant of the achievement 『Enter the Dragon Gate – Metal』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and 200% of the existing effect will be rewarded.

Effect: 36 Stat points

Affinity with all Metal Dragons +20%. Affinity with all Chromatic Dragons -20%

‘Dragon Gate……. Entry?!’

Leeha was shown an achievement.

An achievement that only those who have received a Dragon Heart could have. He also knew what being the second registrant into the Hall of Fame meant.

‘Wow, Alexander!’

What kind of achievement did Alexander receive?

It wasn’t a cruel act of running a raid, killing a dragon, and tearing out a Dragon’s Heart, but literally inheriting the dragon’s power from the dragon’s own will.

If the intimacy with a dragon was not high, it would be an impossible task.

In addition to Bailephus’ blessing, blaugrun and Leeha fought.

‘If I include the last buff…… the total intimacy with Metal Dragons is +80%. And the total affinity with all Chromatic Dragons is -110%.

‘Ah, so-’

Leeha came to a sudden realization. The reason for Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s frowning expression on Radcliffe City.

Because of Bailephus’ blessing, the intimacy automatically started at -80%, so he couldn’t make a good expression after looking at Leeha.

‘If…… I had used that as a hint, would I have known?’

No, that couldn’t be the case. In a situation where Leeha had completely believed that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was a user, there was no way his thought would have reached that far.

Bailephus picked up the two Dragon Scales and the Dragon Heart that turned into a bullet and reached it out to Leeha, who was looking at the quest and achievement window.

“Thank you, Ha Leeha.”

“Ah. No, don’t mention it……

“Then, can you tell me what happened from the beginning?”

Bailephus’ eyes were burning.

It was rather surprising for Leeha to see his human form for the first time rather than his dragon form.

Of course, he looked like a knight of gold, but he seemed to have the dignity of a dragon on his face, which was almost middle-aged or older, different from Bronze Dragon’s sculpted handsome face.

“Can you transform into a dragon?”

“Why do you ask that?”

“I thought it would be nice to talk to you on the way. Oh- Can you give me a ride… if possible.”

“Ride?”

“Yes. I don’t have a map, but I know the direction.”

『Intermediate Marking(Lv. 4)』

Effect: Target highlighting and movement map marking for 86 hours(1/4)

In the end, it wasn’t just a bullet that was shot toward Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. Leeha explained about the marking and Bailephus was amazed once more.

“Indeed! It was no coincidence that you hit me back then.”

“Ah, that…… I am sorry.”

“No, it’s fine. Good. You can’t ride me unless you’re my partner, but-”

Hwaaaaa一!

The armored warrior’s body glowed, and before Leeha knew it, a huge dragon sat in front of him.

『I could make an exception once for the one who inherited Blaugrunn’s legacy.』

“Ohhh!”

Leeha’s body flew up. His body, which was automatically moved by the Gold Dragon’s mana, landed on the Gold Dragon’s neck.

『Hold tight.』

“Yes! It is in the north-northwest direction!”

Leeha grabbed the gold dragon’s scales. He didn’t forget to check out another achievement on the way.

『Achievement: Unforgiven(A-)』

Should I congratulate you?

The chromatic dragons are raging against you. Their wrath, saying that they cannot forgive, not only the body but also the soul, will come to you actively no matter where you are. Don’t be too pessimistic because you can’t run away through space or across the sea!

There is a way out. What if you can’t be forgiven? There’s no choice but to get rid of it so that you don’t have to be forgiven.

Angered Dragon: red dragon Clan, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh

Effect: 32 Temporary Stat Points(Will be removed upon death from the Chromatic Dragon Clan)

Intimacy with all Chromatic Dragons -50%(This achievement does not have a hall of fame)

(Stats will become permanent upon killing the angered dragon.)

“Hmm? Ah-ahhhhh……”

Does being loved by one side necessarily lead to the anger of the other?

‘He looks like someone who’s good at dunking, but he’s really narrow-minded. Was it that unfair.’

The achievement Leeha got when he gave the last shot to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was related to the chromatic dragon. However, Leeha did not mind.

Anyway, his intimacy with chromatic dragons exceeded -100%.

-110%, -160%, what’s the difference?

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Well, isn’t there a difference between killing cleanly and killing while harassing me?’

Anyway, it was just a life that was about to be thrown away(?). Heading north-northwest, cutting through the wind at breakneck speed, Leeha opened his character window.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Job: Musketeer / Level: 163 (87.4%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 100

HP : 4,630(3,241) / MP : 1,215

Stats:

Strength: 334(+249)

Agility: 2,229(+895)

Intelligence: 148(+97)

Constitution:155(+62)

Mind: 45(+35)

Remaining Stat Points: 86

‘The experience points bar is still at 87%? I think I have killed quite a bit, including Crolang… Is it because the total number is small?’

Leeha’s level is still the same. He had some regrets, but it was a good thing for him.

‘Well, if I level up slowly, I would benefit from the Fearless title for a longer period. I will meet more players with a higher level than me……’

So the current situation isn’t bad. It was because he could maintain his level, but he was still accumulating stat points that were related to attack power exponentially.

He had gained 86 stat points from the dragon-related achievement this time alone.

Based on normal level-up, it was equivalent to leveling up 17 times, so although he did not level up, it was still satisfactory.

‘I will put everything into agility this time. I need to improve my aiming speed. In order to catch Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.’

He felt that he did not lack strength or constitution anyway Leeha wanted to be faster. He thirsted for agility after encountering the red dragon which was faster than Pei Wu.


『Is it still the same direction?』

“Yes! I feel like we have narrowed the distance- but it is still quite far!”

『Hmm… I guess he already noticed』

“What?”

『There is no race that could match a dragon when it comes to sensing the flow of mana. It is unlikely that he didn’t notice the feeble mana that was buried in him. Most importantly, he is currently matching my speed.』

Despite flying at great speed for several hours already, their distance to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had not been narrowed much.

It also meant that the red dragon moved at the same speed as that of the gold dragon.

“Then…… what should we do?”

『We need to first check where he will use Blaugrunn’s head. Is he really using Blaugrunn’s head as Tiamat’s material? No, I’m sure it’s impossible…… If you don’t have the enormous power to weigh down metal’s will..』

Bailephus pierced through the air while muttering something that Leeha couldn’t quite understand.

Will they continue playing meaningless tag? The gold dragon’s judgment was quick.

Shwuuuuu-!

Bailephus gradually slowed down.

『I must inform the clan of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s appearance and Blaugrunn’s death. You said you could locate Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, right?』

“Ah, yes. For the next three days-”

『Check carefully and call me immediately if something happens. Do you understand? It’s better to let me know before he uses another move.』

“Yes, I understand.”

Even the gold dragon wasn’t sure what use was Blaugrunn’s head. What if it was used for summoning Tiamat? Another dragon might get attacked. Bailephus was concerned about that. Rather than chasing someone that had already noticed he was getting tracked, it was better to prevent further damage. The gold dragon landed on a deserted island and dropped Leeha off.

『Remember. You are the one designated to carry on Blaugrunn’s legacy. If this task is successfully completed, the metal dragon will not forget its debt.』

“Yes. Even if it’s not Blaugrunn’s will……. I definitely want to give it another go.”


『Beware of the Chromatic Dragons. For you and Blaugrunn!』

Flap- flap-!

The gold dragon flew away after a final remark and disappeared toward the distant sky.

It was rather a relief for Leeha, who thought that a second match against Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh would happen immediately.

‘I still don’t know how to use that Dragon Heart bullet. That means I am not ready yet.’

Since it was marked, if he checked the map from time to time, it might be possible to prevent the dragon from approaching.

“Well…… now then- should I think about it after completing the quest?”

Leeha took his crystal ball and used a teleport scroll to a saved location. If it was a quest that could be completed right away, it was also related to chimera, and the new location was Bottleneck’s smithy.

“Bottleneck-ssi!”

Step- step-!

After teleporting to Bottleneck’s new smithy, which location Leeha had saved last time, he called them in a friendly manner.

The sound of hitting iron stopped and the dwarves stuck out their heads.

“How is it? How is it?”

“Hmm, I will go in and tell you. I just got here today, right? Are there any traps?”

Leeha could tell from Bottleneck’s urging tone. The dwarves must have been impatiently waiting for Leeha. Of course, Leeha teased them a little! Especially after he saw them beckoning to him with their hands.

Leeha even used the Mana Clairvoyance skill to look around properly and went into a small building. It was because there were quite a lot of things he wanted to ask besides simply completing the quest.

“Judging by your face, it seems that you have found the chimera, am I right?”

“I didn’t just find it. Cough!”

Leeha rummaged through his bag and took out items.

Ttok- Ttok-!


Every time rotted skin, discolored flesh, and twisted muscles was placed on the table, Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers frowned.

“This energy…”

“Ten in total. Every part is from a different chimera. It was these guys that I found across the Red Mountains. There were fifty chimeras hiding behind a barrier……. They were chimeras made by Ghibrid.”

“God of Anvil……. Are they really Ghibrid’s chimera? No, no, this is not recent work. This isn’t recent. It should take several years for the skin to become rotten like this. It isn’t possible. If so, does that mean that Ghibrid hadn’t appeared yet? Then who the hell- how?”

Bottleneck fiddled with Ghibrid’s chimera flesh and muttered to himself repeatedly.

Leeha quietly watched the muttering dwarf.

Bottleneck, who had been examining the chimera skins for a long time, opened his mouth again only after handing the skins over to the Beard Brothers.

“Barrier…… Did you say there was a barrier? Right, that’s it. There’s no way he could remain. What kind of barrier was it?”

“Hmmm, it’s ruined now, but…… it was a barrier to hide their presence.”

“Didn’t the chimera break the barrier?”

“Huh? Why would the chimera break the barrier to hide their presence?”

Bottleneck had asked a random question with knowledge that only he knew. Still, Leeha did not panic and answered slowly.

Of course, there was a reason for Bottleneck’s excitement.

“A chimera is never in one place. They were beings whose bodies have been randomly mixed together and had completely lost intelligence……. They are so broken that they consume each other as nourishment.”

Listening to Bottleneck’s words, Leeha recalled that time.

Even after Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh dismantled the barrier, they did not appear. Were they fighting each other? He didn’t even look into that. Because their goal was clearly fixed on Leeha and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

“Oh, I didn’t think so. All of them were aiming at me. Rather than fighting each other……”

“That’s it.”

Bottleneck’s expression was bright and sad at the same time. Was it years of experience that enabled him to make such a difficult expression? He read Leeha’s thoughts.

“It must mean that someone who could lead the chimera had appeared.”

“Right. It also means that there is someone who can lead the chimeras created by Ghibrid during the 2nd Human-Demon war.”

“Who can do that? Red dragon?”

The one who guided him to that place.

Leeha recalled the name of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and quickly asked, but Bottleneck only made a puzzled expression.

“Huh? What are you talking about all of a sudden, red dragon? Is it not clear who led the chimera created by “Chimera’s Nest” Ghibrid, a Demon King’s Fragment.”

“Ah……! Ahh! Bluebeard!”

“That’s right. Another Demon King’s Fragment ‘Bluebeard’ Count Le. There is only him.”

Leeha felt like he was about to burst out laughing. Of course, he couldn’t do that in front of the serious Bottleneck, so he suppressed it with all his might.

Was it something like catching a mouse while stepping backward?

‘What, this? It’s like clearing two quests in one go!’

It was the condition for clearing the quest 『Demon Noble ‘Bluebeard’ Count Le』.

It was to obtain the location of Bluebeard! At least one thing was certain. Bluebeard visited the barren lands of southwest Minis.

The reason was to gather and conceal the chimeras Ghibrid left behind during the second Human-Demon war!

“Are you sure Ghibrid didn’t appear?”

“I can’t say for sure, but if he had appeared, he wouldn’t have used the old chimeras. As soon as he shows up, he would have spat out all kinds of chimeras.”

“Then, was Bluebeard the one who plotted this beyond the Red Mountains?”

“Did you say there were about 50 chimeras? You can be sure just by looking at it. There are so few. It should be at least 300. In other words, wouldn’t it be safe to say that the chimeras ate each other? In other words, it was not long ago that Bluebeard appeared there..”

Hearing Bottleneck’s confirmation Leeha smiled lightly. It was confirmed.

“Can Bottleneck-nim prove his innocence with this?”

“……They’re idiots whose brains are made of iron ore, but they won’t go unnoticed. If we add your testimony, it would be difficult for the other side to say more. Thank you.”

Bottleneck finally smiled.

At that moment, a fanfare rang in Leeha’s head.

『You have completed the quest ‘Revocation of Decision’.』

『You have obtained 3 Free passes from Bottleneck’s smithy. 』

『You have obtained an additional Free Pass by exceeding the quest conditions.』

‘Oh?’

And while Bottleneck frowned, Leeha saw one more notification that brought delight.

‘I have to thank Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. Haha.’

It was all thanks to the red dragon that he was able to find the chimeras and complete the quest and take time to hand over the items.

‘Thank you, I will make sure to give you a shot next time.’

Leeha vowed revenge and took out another item while looking at Bottleneck.

“Now, then I will have to tell you everything since I saw your face.. I am talking about this.”

“W-w-what is that! What is that!”

“Uwaaaaa! Boss?!”

“Waaak! D-dragon- dra-dragon-”

As soon as they saw the item, Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers made a fuss. Leeha, who was sitting across from them, was rather surprised.

“What are you screaming about, I got surprised. But do you recognize it? Do you know what this is? The shape must have changed a bit.”

“What a madman! Why is-a Dragon Heart here!”

It wouldn’t have been surprising if Bottleneck started swearing.

Where in the world would anyone take a Dragon Heart out of their bag so calmly?

“Haa, haa, beard- Beard Brothers! Water! Bring me cold water!”

“I want to drink, I want to drink too, boss!”

The two dwarves rushed over and gulped down the water.

They drank until their beards were wet, and Bottleneck hurriedly drank cold water as well. It wasn’t until a little later that the dwarves were able to calm themselves.

“Where did you get it? Did you steal it? You didn’t steal it and come here right away, right? If you did……. You didn’t, right? You didn’t do something crazy like that, right?”

“I don’t hear a dragon outside, boss!”

“If that was the case, hell’s Anvil would be over! An angry dragon will eat all the dwarves!”

“I-indeed. Calm down. Surely. Did you think I’m a thief?”

Leeha barely managed to calm down the trembling dwarves.

When asked if he was a thief, the Beard Hyung replied, ‘Aren’t you a thief’? It’s hard to believe what you have done..’

while pretending not to hear anything.

“I just got this recently, but no matter how I think about it, it’s strange, so I wanted to ask you about it.”

“What?”

(To be continued…)
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 『Blaugrunn’s Dragon Heart』

Effect: ??

Description: A Dragon Heart contained all the mana and essence of a dragon. It is a natural mana hole that constantly absorbs mana even when dormant, which is incomparable to humans in quantity and quality. It belongs to Blaugrunn, an adult Bronze Dragon who had lived for 1,377 years.

“A Dragon Heart containing?”

“Yes.”

“The owner of this Dragon Heart made it this way, into one bullet…”

“I can’t believe you had that kind of conversation with a dragon. Okay, is that it? What do you want to do?”

Bottleneck hit his forehead! He looked at Leeha with a surprised look on his face.

Leeha came up with an idea while fiddling with the Dragon Heart that he felt in his hands which was so light that it did not seem to have any weight.

“By any chance, can you split this up?”

“What do you mean split?”

“Hmm, so… that size of the Dragon Heart was originally bigger than this. But since it was compressed into one shape like this, I was wondering if it could be returned to its original size and then split apart into a bullet and another lump.”

“Huh?”

Leeha dug into the contents of Blaugrunn’s quest and the description of the Dragon Heart with the knowledge that Middle Earth was a game that had its peculiarities.

“What do you mean huh?! So, let’s say there is iron that has already been made into a sword. Then after melting the sword again, wouldn’t it be possible to recycle it like a small hammer and a pickaxe? Don’t you think?”

“T-That’s, that’s, but- no, with iron and Dragon Heart-”

“Are you saying that Dwarves, who can make everything, can’t do it…? And that Hell’s Anvil’s best small-tools specialist can’t do it?”

Even with just Leeha’s simple provocation, veins protruded from Bottleneck’s forehead.

Leeha managed to hold back a laugh.

“Kidd, are you looking down on me right now? I’ve never done it myself, but my great-grandfather was the first person to carve a Dragon’s Heart in Hell’s Anvil! It was my grandfather who turned that Dragon’s Heart into pellet-sized bullets! Did you know? He was once called ‘Moonlight Sculptor’ because he cut it so well that it looked like the moonlight-”


“Oh-oh, that’s even better! After all, isn’t talent in the bloodline? Then Bottleneck-ssi can do it too, right?”

 “Huh? That, well……”

“Besides, that’s not the only request I have.”

Leeha took out two more items and placed them on the table. Bottleneck and Beard Brothers’ eyes widened once more.

“Dragon Scales! Did you catch a dragon? It must have been the owner of the Dragon Heart! It belongs to the bronze dragon!”

“I didn’t catch it. Rather, the dragon gave it to me as a gift.”

“A bronze dragon gave it to you as a gift? Its own heart and scales?”

“Don’t make that blatant disbelieving expression. It’s a complicated story. Anyway, since you have seen the scales-”

『Blaugrunn’s Dragon Scale』

Effect: ??

Description: This is a scale of a Bronze Dragon. It is a material that has an extreme physical and magical defense. All dragon scales contain unique breath energy, to the extent that there is an absurd saying that a king might even trade their country for armor made of dragon scales.

“-It says it contains breath energy. Is that right?”

“I guess so. Isn’t it said that dragon breath is not just simple mana, but a combination of dragon scale’s energy, mana manipulation, and dragon breathing? ” An average person would have focused on the “defensive strength” of the dragon scale. Since it was only small scales, their imagination must have stopped to the extent of making and using gloves. However, Leeha did not.

He focused on the words after that, the fact that it contained “breath energy”.

“So, in the end, we’re talking about this-”

 Seuk, seuk, seuk.

Leeha enthusiastically explained to Bottleneck and Beard Brothers while drawing on the table.

It was clear that a human would not be able to make it.

They have learned production skills in Middle Earth, but they can’t make them just because they had the skill. No, to be precise, they could make it automatically, but it is also affected by probability.

In other words, they had to make it without automatic production, but in order to do that, they must have the level of sophistication and skill to make it themself. It was also the reason why they could not recklessly rebuild modern products even if they had general knowledge.


However, what about now? Leeha did not request it from a human.

He requested it from someone who could create anything as long as Middle Earth’s system allowed it.

If so, how far will it be allowed?

“-Is it possible to do that?”

“What a devilish imagination.”

Bottleneck shook his head after listening to the long explanation.

The Beard Brothers trembled slightly. With a look that strongly agreed with Bottleneck’s words.

As Leeha stayed quiet, Bottleneck spoke once more.

“It really is a devilish imagination. Do you really want to make this?”

“Even when it was first released, it was often called devilish.”

“Huh? When did it get released first?”

“No, no. I am talking to myself.”

Leeha smiled at Bottleneck.

After all, were repulsive things in reality set to be repulsive in Middle Earth as well?. Bottleneck sighed heavily and asked Leeha.

“Where are you going to use this?”

“Of course, to protect myself.”

“Oh……”

“Wouldn’t it be okay in theory? There’s an energy source, and something to act as a starter. You’ll just have to get the insulator for the other items here. As for the rest, if you make it as usual, there would be no problem.”

Leeha shook the pondering Bottleneck.

The materials were sufficient and it was intended for self-defense! Additionally, there was no way to go wrong as long as the theory was applied while examining the real thing.


The only thing left was for the dwarves to make it.

“……All right, I can’t look down on the person who did me a favor. I will do my best”

“Boss!”

And the production craftsman NPC couldn’t resist the temptation. The Beard Brothers were surprised, but Bottleneck was not rattled.

“However, for that to happen, including the cost of the experiment-”

“Huh? Cost? I can make four requests for free, right?”

“Huh?”

“Please take care of me. First of all, I wrote all ‘four requests’ this way! Make sure to keep a good ledger.”

“Oh?”

For a moment, in Bottleneck’s eyes the young man sitting across him looked like a chimera. And Leeha’s smirk looked more horrifying than a chimera.

It wasn’t just Leeha, Kidd, and Luger that were looking for Bluebeard’s traces, other users were as well.

Users who were fully involved in the mainstream quest, like the Three Musketeers, were intervening in the story as users, and low-level users who could not get a sense of what the Demon King’s Fragment was, intervened in the story as low-level users.

Although they did not exactly intervene.

“Save-save-! Oh, oaaaah!”

“Use the return scroll quickly! Hurry!!”

“I have none- we should run instead!” Kung- kung- kung-!

One low-level user ran until his soles were sweating.

It was an ogre that made loud footsteps behind a user who hadn’t even reached level 100.

Unlike ordinary ogres, it was seven-meter tall and had four arms.

“Just close the gates!”

“Aish- How can you do that when that might come in?”

“Are there no NPCs here? Close the door! Knights! No, guards! What’s the point of putting up a fence?!”

“Why the fuck are field bosses popping up out of nowhere?!”

The users in the village stomped their feet.

The only thing that could be called a wall on the castle was the 2m wooden fence that had a similar height as the gate. They had to close the door now, but they couldn’t ignore the user who was running.

Most importantly, it was because the users had something to believe in.

‘There’s no way a monster will come into town.’

‘It’s safe to be here, right?’

‘Will the guards go out to kill it? I’ll have to hit it as well then.’

Tension and excitement enveloped them. Kuung- Kuung- The ogre still ran without slowing down.

In front of him, the distance from the user was gradually narrowing, and there was no teleport magic and no return scroll, so there were not many options for low-level people to choose.

“Haaaa.. Haaa…shit…”

The user’s steps gradually slowed down. Even those who hid behind the gates knew what it was like.

“Crazy, I must have lost stamina!”

“How! Someone come and save me!”

“What do you mean? How can we save you? Say something that makes sense!”

“No, call the NPC guards! Where did they go? Everyone?”

While the users in the village were making a fuss, the running user calmly adjusted his expression. Because he knew best that running was wrong anyway.

He smiled and gestured towards the village.

“Everyone! Everyone at least get! Hurry up and call the NPC-”

Baaaaaang–!

When the four-handed ogre hit its club, only traces of ketchup were left on the floor.

The user immediately turned gray, but the effects could be seen. It was such a brutal scene that even the users who knew it was a game would frown.

“Eub.

Whhhhaaaat-!

“The gate! Close the gate!”

kung-kung-kung-!

Even after killing the user, the ogre did not stop. The people in the village quickly closed the gate and locked it.

It was then that the NPC Guards arrived. Unlike the knights, seeing the NPCs light gear brought to the faces of the users.

“Hey! Come!”

“Okay, drink buff potions.”

“Everyone in the village guards! Over there!”

The users took out their weapons with great courage. They didn’t know what kind of monster it was, but it was a village near level 70 hunting ground anyway.

It was a field boss they had never seen before, but they thought it was because they hadn’t seen it because of their lack of experience. At most, it would be somewhere around level 100, that was what they thought. They were careless because they thought the guards could handle it.

“All guards of Flex Village, prepare for battle!”

HA-!

“There-”

Baaaaaang—–!!

Uwaa, uwaaaah?”

The gate, including the barrier, was destroyed in a single attack.

Uguuuuu-!

The four-handed ogre howled. Four clubs on its four arms swung like windmills.

“What, fuck! T-the guards-”

A guard NPC with a spear and a guard NPC with a sword and a shield soared into the sky with a puck and pick sound.

It was a natural fact that they would not be able to survive. Despite its size, the giant club swept everything in front of it in line with its movement.

Trees, shops, NPCs, users…….

THe ogre raged as if it were going to wipe out the entire village and was like a lion in Middle Earth.

“Run! What, fuck- I even took a screenshot-”

Kuoooooooh-!

『Ponahoka roared.』

『Fear status has been applied.』

『You will not be able to move for 1 minute.』

『Maximum HP has been reduced by 30% for 1 minute.』

『Stamina will be reduced to 50% or less.』

The trustworthy NPCs of the security forces had turned into autumn leaves. There was nothing that the users could do..

‘Shit, shit, shit-’

‘Ah, my experience points, fuck!’

Kuuug……. Kuung…….

They couldn’t turn their head even when they heard the sound of something approaching slowly.

When the users clearly felt the fear approaching from behind them, a purple light source flashed in the direction they were looking into..	”

“Huu, it’s a four-handed ogre! The same as last time, his estimated level is around 220!” as the light disappeared, one group of users, ranged dealers, mages, and tankers, a total of 25 people all wore capes.

The person in front held a sword and shield, and ran with a confident attitude, as if they had already experienced it.

“Kikis, got it. Kaaaaaak-”

The stunned users couldn’t open their mouths, but they were listening to their conversation.

The guild, who searched for large monsters that pop out of nowhere, was currently gaining popularity.

“-Tweeeeeee!”

The purpose of Bluebeard, and furthermore, the purpose of Middle Earth’s system was to weaken the users.

A representative example was the national war, and after the national war, the raid for Count Le.

But to Count Le and Middle Earth, that thinking was wrong. Instead, it was nothing more than ‘weeding out’.

(To be continued…)
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 Kuooooooh-!

“Bind- Arm.”

The four-handed ogre’s arms rattled as another spell that partially bound space was partially applied following Biyemi’s continuous poison damage. The ogre couldn’t comprehend why it could move its face and feet while it couldn’t move its arms.

How does one deal with a monster with high strength but low intelligence? What was the most efficient way to catch a monster using the minimum amount of mana and minimum amount of time? They had accumulated knowledge through numerous experiences.

“Great, as expected! Alright, we won’t lose to anyone in terms of game strategy, right?! Byulcho, chaaaaarge! Catch this and let us go catch the winged ogre on the other side!”

“If Kay does well in tanking, it will end quickly..”

“T-Tale-hyungnim!”

Kijung and the Byulcho users did not forget to laugh even in the midst of the urgent situation. Those who survived the national war and withstood the raid by joining forces became stronger than in the past. Even though raids happened everywhere and it was burdensome, they also helped in training Byulcho. Of course, not all people who survived the national war and raid became strong the same way. When the majority of people became stronger by fighting demons, it was only natural that someone got stronger by getting closer to demons.

Southwest of Minis, the village of Radcliffe. The village Leeha visited not too long ago was still a place where a small number of players gathered to prepare for the hunt.

“Looking for someone to catch a griffin! Looking for one healer~!”

“Buying chain teleport scroll, looking for one urgently.”

“Looking for a level 170 tank -…… oh?”

“Hmm?”

“Hmm? What’s that?”

Since it was a small village located at the entrance to the Red Mountains, the mountain ridge was visible even from the center of the city.

“Oh? It’s something like a lump of dregs…… is it a monster?”

“It’s my first time seeing it.”

It was a huge mass wriggling and slowly moving on the red-colored earth. Whether it was walking or wriggling, at first glance, something that could be believed to be a huge slime was slowly moving toward Radcliffe.

“Amazing. It is said that there’s a monster even on Fibiel these days. Did Minis also have one?”

“The one where field bosses spawn?”


“Oh, great. Should we catch it?”

Minis users gathered in groups of threes and fives. How easy would that lump be compared to a large-sized monster with several arms? The speed of the slowly approaching enemy and the fact that there were more than 50 users with a minimum level of 170 nearby gave them confidence.

“Who wants to catch that lump?”

“Me, me, me, me, me, me!”

“Invite me to your party!”

Users gathered in an instant. Even though it was rushed, the speed of users at the intermediate level or higher was able to divide the roles quickly.

Two raid groups were formed in an instant.

Grrrrrr…….

The sound of the monster coming from afar made the users’ spines turn cold. They were certain that it was a monster they had never encountered before.

“Shouldn’t we call the NPC Knights, just in case?”

“Ah, aren’t we about to leave?”

A group of people ran toward the entrance to the Red Mountains. The group equipped with shining silver armor were clearly the knights in charge of Radcliffe.

“……But why are they closing the gate?”

“Shouldn’t they go out and catch it? Let’s make a move as well.”

The users tilted their heads and moved. At some point, the lump monster came down the ridge and seemed to be moving on flatland, and it was no longer visible. Was it coming toward the entrance of Radcliffe?

“Take a detoxifying potion first! Call the priests!”

“Report to the Capital and Ezwen! Quick!”

“Okay!”

The Knights NPCs busily communicated while barricading the front gate.

“Waa…… What is this? Isn’t it a normal event?”


It was a new sight that users who did not actively participate in the national war could not experience. Beyond the admiration of the users and shouts of the NPCs, were the cries of the monster that could be heard.

Grr- Grrr…….

Grrrr, grrrr-!

“Excuse me, knight-nim, what kind of monster is that?”

“Get out of here! Get away while we stall!”

“What?”

“Sooner or later the mayor will order to close the city! Before that, hurry up and use the warp gate to escape!”

Order to close the city. The heart of the users felt like sinking at that word. What kind of monster was it that the city would be closed? So it wasn’t an event where slightly stronger field bosses would invade and players leveled up while blocking it?

There have been rumors that Fibiel was able to somewhat block it, but that was the only thing Minis users knew. That was all they knew.

“W-what is that?”

And one of Minis’ users asked the knight. At that moment, a light purple curtain was drawn over their heads.

“What’s the use of idiots who don’t even know what a chimera is?”

“Huh? Chi一”

Shwik, a cane pierced and came out of the user’s chest.

It was a speed that even the NPC knights could not respond to, so of course the users would not be able to handle it.

“What? In the village- keok!”

Swik, swik, swik.

Something moved. Even those remnants fell one by one at a speed that was hard for the eyes to follow.

“What is happening?! Why are they suddenly-” Bang- Bang- Bang-!

It wasn’t just the unknown enemy inside the village that caused an uproar. A knocking sound could be heard from the gate. An ominous sound that could be heard even inside the city. Accompanied by a rustling sound, acrid smoke leaked through the cracks in the gate. The door was not broken. It just slowly corroded and melted away!


“Grrrr!”

“Grrr, grrrrr-”

They looked too disgusting to be considered monsters.

About 30 chimeras that Leeha and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh hadn’t killed began to enter the village of Radcliffe.

“Acid fluid?! Cough, cough, the smoke is poisonous as well!”

“Waaaa, this, this is not possible!”

“Stop them! Stop them from entering the village! How about the message? Did you send the message!?”

The NPC knights asked, but the reply was in vain.

“Are you asking about this letter?”

“Who are you-”

“What’s the point of knowing now? Tsk tsk, I tried to save you if you were my taste, but you are not, so it couldn’t be helped.”

“Cough…”

Bluebeard cut the head of the leader of Radcliffe’s NPC knights. Minis users knew right away. They could neither escape using space movement nor fight against Bluebeard. They would also not be able to deal with the 30 chimeras that sprayed acid and poison all over their bodies. No matter what they choose, it would only result in death. They had no other choice but to spread what they had witnessed through screenshots, recordings, and whispers to their friends, and so on, as much as possible.

“T-The whisper is not working?!”

“Did you really think that communication would be allowed? Heuheu, that look is quite cute.”

It was as if Bluebeard did not allow it. Just as Middle Earth experts were about to use special scrolls, the Monster-Class NPC Bluebeard blocked everything from whispers to video recordings.

“Phew……. This, it’s hard to move with an old body. To think I had to take care of a friend’s pets.”

It took only about half an hour for the two raid teams, the NPC knights, and the marketplace, including the NPC mayor of Radcliffe village, to die.

The total death toll was well over 500.

“Grrrrr-”

“Right, right, eat a lot. Ah, you can’t eat alone. He needs to be fed too.”

When Bluebeard pointed with his staff, the mount that Crolang rode previously started to growl! And cried. Whether they understood Bluebeard’s words or not, the chimeras started walking around and swallowed the users’ bodies. The arms protruding out of their bodies lifted the corpses and shoved them into their mouths like conveyor belts.

Pushwiiik-!

The whole corpse started corroding and disappeared with steam

As if it was not enough The chimeras ate everything with legs except tables and thoroughly destroyed Radcliffe.

Bluebeard sat on the roof and sighed as he looked down at the scene.

“Seeing that they were not able to take care of 30 chimeras, it seems they are not here…. The ones who got in the way of my plans. I am very busy……. If you have something to say, wouldn’t it be better to come and show yourself?”

When Bluebeard raised his cane into the air, a giant man appeared in the empty space.

Kaaang-!

Two curved swords crossed each other and hit the cane that slowly stabbed at him.

“Did you destroy this city knowingly? You still have bad taste, old man.”

The man holding the curved swords had red-shaved hair. The giant man snorted and looked down at Bluebeard.

“I knew it was a dragon. I just didn’t know who. Long time no see, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. What are you trying to do with my plans?”

“I have a favor to ask you.”

“Favor? Hmmm……. You are not to my taste. If you ask me, I don’t like muscular men-”

“Don’t make perverted jokes, old man. Unless you want to die after just waking up.”

“Ho, ho, do you think you can kill me, red idiot?”

Even while opening their mouths, the Demon King’s Fragment and the red dragon did not stop being wary of each other.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh glared at Bluebeard with burning eyes.

He did not move carelessly even though he showed the momentum that he would change into dragon form at any moment and release his breath.

“We don’t lose anything to each other. I don’t want to borrow the power of an old man like you, but there’s an uninvited guest on my side.”

“An uninvited guest. Is it that dung fly Bailephus? Hmm, I’m sure there’s no other fly or mosquito more annoying than that guy. I am so tired of his justice and sun.”

If Bailephus had heard it, he would have let out a breath of white flame right away, but Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had a faint smile on his face.

Without knowing that the gold dragon, his old rival, being compared directly to a fly or a mosquito was indirectly insulting him as well.

“……There is naturally that guy.”

After the brief smile disappeared, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh opened his mouth again. What the red dragon meant was not the gold dragon.

“Then who is it?”

“……There are a lot of bothersome things.”

However, he could not tell you who it is. His dragon pride didn’t allow it.

“Wouldn’t it be fine if you chuuu~ with your breath? Hooo, I really wonder who Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh wants to keep in check.”

“Noisy. If you help me, I will add my strength to your plan. Will you help?”

“You know what I am doing?”

Bluebeard looked up from his seated position at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who spoke as if he already knew about everything.

“Of course. If it was you, anyone with a brain would have noticed.”

Humans can’t easily move even if they notice. Aren’t they more stupid than we thought?”

“Exactly. However, it’s always the stupid ones who get in the way of a plan.”

At Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh last word, the corner of Bluebeard’s mouth rose.

It was because he agreed with the red dragon’s statement, but also because he had a vague idea of who he was trying to keep in check.

“That makes sense. And I know that what’s annoying you is a human.”

The red dragon and Demon King’s Fragment’s thoughts aligned for the first time. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh put the curved swords on his back and held out his hands.

“Heh, would you like to hold hands, old- no, Count Le.”

“Hmmm, okay.”

Taak-!

Bluebeard stood up and took the red dragon’s hand. The unofficial alliance of the 2nd Human-Demon War became official 20 years later.

“But do red dragons sweat in their hands? It did not feel good because it was damp. The older you get, the more you have to take care of such trivial things. How old are you this year?”

“One more word and this alliance- hmm? There’s someone here.”

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who was about to get angry at Bluebeard’s joke, turned around.

Who was in the city where 30 chimeras were roaming around with no living creatures?

“Grrrr……

“Grrt- grrt- grt-!”

Someone slowly walked toward Bluebeard and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh while keeping the chimeras from approaching them. The figure dragging its tail on the floor was clearly a Lizardia.

(To be continued…)
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 “Who are you?”

“The conversation I heard was very informative, by any chance, Count Le.…?”

The user had been hiding and listening until now. He roamed Radcliffe where no living being could roam. A race close to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh approached without paying attention to his question.

“Are you ignoring me? You dare-”

“Tsk, tsk, let’s get a feel for the atmosphere. Don’t you know who that is? Cough, right, how did you get here?”

As the Lizardia knelt down, Bluebeard looked at him with a grin. The Lizardia user who knelt down between Bluebeard and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh also smiled as if he could see it. He was delighted that his gamble was right.

“I greet you. I am someone who seeks the path of demons. Necromancer-”

The lizardia’s tail swept across the floor. The user who chose to approach the devil instead of fighting it spoke his nickname.

“-Faust. Even though I am weak, I want to be the Count’s strength.”

“My strength?”

“Summon Undead.”

As the kneeling Lizardia chanted lightly, the ground began trembling.

Puk- Puuk- puuk-!

Zombies and skeletons came out after breaking the hard ground. The number easily exceeded one hundred. Perhaps because the chimeras did not recognize the undead as living beings, they only bumped into them and spewed poison, but did not swallow them.

“The chimeras…”

If it was a normal skeleton, it would have returned to the soil as soon as it touched the corrosive liquid. However, ranker Faust’s reinforced skeletons were somewhat resistant to the chimera’s corrosive liquid.

Even though Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh admired it for a moment, Bluebeard, which Faust wanted to follow, smacked his lips as if it was a shame.

“Tsk, it’s not to the extent that it is unusable, but it’s too weak …”

“That’s right. I am weak right now, but if the count takes me in and guides me…”

“Hmm.


“

It was no coincidence that he came here. Faust, who made a defensive wall with the Alchemist Crowley throughout Minis, had been looking for Bluebeard after learning the reason why the war abruptly ended. He was also a top 10 ranker, someone who can fully analyze the meaning of Middle Earth, job flows, and hints. The reason he was looking for Bluebeard was simple.

What must a necromancer do to become stronger? Where did the job that handled the undead start? In a sense, it was natural for a necromancer who used corpses, curses, and demonic magic to take a different path from normal users. Isn’t learning from the beginning the fastest way to grow?

“Today seems to be a day for me. The red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, as well as a necromancer, came. Did you say your name is Faust? Can you do what I will ask you to do?”

The Lizardia, who was the same race as Biyemi, had a distinct appearance with white dead skin like an albino lizard, nodded.

“Of course. Count-nim.”

Shwaaaak-! Babam-!

In an instant, a quest window and a new achievement appeared in front of Faust. Faust struggled to hold back his laughter. With the pride in his heart that the path he had thought of was also a correct answer, he started making plans to clear the quest given by Bluebeard.

“Chuckle, give it a try. I am not close to smelly things, but I have a friend who’s pretty good at things like corpses and magic dolls. If you get things right, I will put you in touch with ‘Pirote – Kokri’. Well, I guess I have to figure out where that friend is first.”

“Yes, thank you. Count-nim.”

Among the users, there was a person who sympathized with the Demon King’s army.

However, when it came to jobs dealing with demons, there were still a lot more besides a necromancer.

***

After finishing his business in Hell Anvil, Leeha immediately headed for the Musket Academy after getting back to the capital. Since the quest completion notification hasn’t popped up yet, it meant that neither Kidd nor Luger found any trace of Bluebeard.

‘I’m sorry, my friends. However, the world is cruel.’

Only those who clear the quest first can receive stat points! It was only natural for Leeha to search for Browless.

“Director-nim~? Hmm?”

However, in front of the locked door of the director’s office, there was only a piece of paper stuck to it.

『I have a business in the Royal Palace』

Leeha once again felt the difficulty of having a musketeer as a job.


“……Director-nim…… how can those low-level users looking for you enter the Royal Palace…?”

There was no way that low-level users who only caught bats and spiders in the Lightless Forest could enter the palace.

Players with no contribution nor reputation would have to use unusual verbal skills or all sorts of tricks against the guards in order to enter the Royal Palace.

“Looking at things like this, musketeers still have low preference. It really has the worst difficulty.”

Could it be said that it was fortunate that there was no significant change in the level of difficulty even after the facilities of Musketeer Academy improved and the atmosphere has brightened?

Leeha shook his head, recalling the time that already felt like the past.

After opening the Three Musketeers’ Friend window to confirm the locations of Kidd and Luger, Leeha immediately headed for Fibiel’s Royal Palace. Of course, he did not forget to check the location of another person in the palace.

‘Nara-ssi is still there. Will her level rise if she stayed in there all the time? How does she maintain her ranking?’

The way she grew after becoming a member of the Knight Order was unimaginable to Leeha.

“Stop, stop. What are you doing here?”

“I am here to meet Browless-nim, who is in the palace.”

“Please put your hand on the crystal ball.”

Leeha put on a rather pleased expression as he watched the guards who were still fiercely inspecting him.

‘Right, no matter how well-known and high the reputation is, inspections of major places must always be thorough.’

In particular, in Leeha’s eyes, who was a former soldier, this was the correct action. He touched the crystal ball, but after a while, the crystal ball’s reaction made Leeha to cause an uproar.

“Oh, w-what?”

Paaa-!

It was because a brilliant golden aura emanated from the crystal ball.

There was only one reaction when he put his hand on the crystal ball. It emitted a light blue light.

There was a time when a red light came out when he entered Castle Van Cowl, but it did not happen this time.


“Waa, what changed? It’s never done this before-”

Leeha, who admired the splendid effect, tried to ask, but the guards moved faster.

Everyone—attention!

Papak! At the guard captain’s shout, the guards’ movement became in perfect order.

To the recipient of the Medal of Honor— at one’s beck and call —— Sword!

The guards simultaneously raised their swords at 60 degrees and raised them. It was a custom action without even 0.1 seconds of error.

When two rows of guards lifted their swords at the same time, it became a pathway made of swords.

“Uh……uh…”

“Welcome, hero of the national war, Ha Leeha-nim! Browless-nim is in the Central Palace!”

“Ah, that- yes. Thank you.”

Leeha couldn’t help but be perplexed when he saw the passageway that the guards who were conducting the inspection had made facing the entrance of the palace.

‘This, what- it’s embarrassing! The Chief of Staff wasn’t even treated like this! I have only seen it once, this was what my army mates did at Captain Kijung’s wedding!’

Leeha’s thoughts were all over the place while walking under the sword salute, which was literally a protocol for an event.

The faces of the NPCs with their swords raised were solemn and unshakable, but the national hero walking beneath them, worthy of respect, was sweating profusely.

“It won’t be like this every time I come, will it?”

It was only after passing through the gate that was dark and deep like a cave and entering the Palace Garden, that he was now quite familiar with, that Leeha was able to shake off his embarrassment.

‘In this beautiful garden…”

Although the garden had a geometric shape, lotzac’s trap was still laid in unknown locations.

When Leeha reached those thoughts, he felt wary of Lotzac again.

‘It’s quiet even during the national war, and even though Bluebeard is making a fuss, he’s still staying still? Is he in fact an NPC with nothing?’

Was he not a mainstream-level NPC, but only an NPC related to the musketeer quest?

‘No, it can’t be.’

Leeha had gotten curious about Lotzac’s identity.

He was the one who took the lead in concealing the facts about Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth, he also now holds the position of being the Chief Mage in the Royal Palace.

Judging from his past actions and current position, Leeha had a vague feeling that he wasn’t just a passing quest NPC.

‘Just by looking at his appearance, he looks like the white mage from the ‘Ring’ movie, but there must be something more.’

It was just that he had no idea when, how, or where he was moving.

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Oh, Nara-ssi!”

“You should’ve told me you were coming! I just got notified and found out.”

“What notification?”

“Hehe, I didn’t know, but when the recipient of the Medal Honor enters the Royal Palace, the Royal Palace will be notified. Hurry up, did you come to see Browless-nim?”

Shin Nara smiled brightly and naturally crossed her arms with Leeha.

Leeha’s eyes widened as she performed the bold move casually.

“Quickly, quickly. Browless-nim has been waiting for you.”

How…… will he be able to say that it seems his arms seemed to touch something?

Due to the nature of his job as a Fencer, and as a member of the Sacred Knights, she wore a half-plate armor, but even though she was wearing metal armor, Leeha clearly felt something(?).

“Oh, oh- that-”

Leeha was dragged away by Shin Nara, hoping his face would not turn red.

“Are you leaving today as well?”

“What?”

“I am asking because I think you will leave to go somewhere again after talking to Browless-nim. Didn’t you suddenly disappear from the banquet hall the other day?”

Leeha had a happy smile as she saw Shin Nara’s pursed lips and slightly disappointed tone.

“I’m sorry. It was because there was a sudden urgent quest.”

“Really…… I understand because it’s me, but if it’s another woman, they wouldn’t be able to stand up to that.”

Even though she was angry, she complained in a soft tone to Leeha.

“Yes? What do you mean?”

“Did you forget again?”

As Shin Nara tried to raise her voice, something came to Leeha’s mind.

He even told himself to never forget! Leeha deliberately responded with an exaggerated gesture.

“No way! Did you set the date with Bobae-ssi?”

“Yes. I heard she would be available for lunch this Saturday. How about Leeha-ssi?”

“I’m okay with it. I will confirm with Kay.”

“Okay! Hurry up and ask. No, should I ask him?”

If Kijung said no, Shin Nara might kill him. Leeha suddenly shook his head, worried for the safety of his cousin.

Most importantly, it would not be an exaggeration to say that Kijung was looking forward to this meeting the most, so there was almost no chance of him saying no.

“No, it’s okay, I will ask him.”

That bastard is still a student.”

“Oh, so he’s a college student.”

If Kijung was beside her, he would have asked ‘Is that surprising? Don’t I look like one?’.

From the time they met at the Palace Garden, they walked together, having a pleasant atmosphere until they arrived at the Central Palace and climbed the stairs. It was after arriving in front of a room that she released Leeha’s arm, which he had held all this time.

“Browless-ssi is in this room. These days, he comes almost every morning. We also talk a lot.”

“What is he doing?”

“It seems that he is having trouble in persuading the nobles and the king. They are not agreeing on terms of the peace treaty.”

The Pope’s power had the power over the truce and peace treaty, but could not be involved in finalizing its content.

Therefore, the countries involved would wrap it up, however, they were still fighting over where the border should be and what the damage compensation should be.

Browless was struggling with it. In order to prevent incurring bigger losses by pursuing small profits.

“Ah…”

“T-The users are also having problems about that…. Some users are saying, “Let’s get this over with”, while other users are saying “No, we should at least get a few cities”. And they aren’t coming to an agreement because of that, to be exact, the majority of users want to just get one last name and finish it, but Ram Hwayeon wants to get a little more-”

“Did Ram Hwayeon do that?”

Hearing this for the first time, Leeha was startled and asked.

(To be continued…)

P. S.

I think this is what they made for Leeha:

Sword Salute!
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 Ram Hwayeon is in the group working on the peace treaty. However, if he thought about it a little, it made sense. In order to finalize the peace treaty, those who remained on the battlefield until the end would have to give their testimonies, and it was not unusual for Ram Hwayeon, who was Granville’s messenger, to be a part of it.

“Yes. That’s right. Anyway, she seemed like a greedy woman. Don’t you think so?”

“Oh…… well……. Ram Hwayeon is an important resource.”

All the while, Leeha wanted to laugh at the thought that it was in her character to not be satisfied with just one castle and ask for another castle or city.

Shin Nara did not miss that slight, subtle change in his expression and nuance of his words.

“By the way, are you close with her?”

“What?”

“Why are you only calling her by her name?”

“Who- Ram Hwayeon?”

This time, Shin Nara’s eyes narrowed slightly when Leeha called Ram Hwayeon’s name. However, it was not her style to tease like Ram Hwayeon so Shin Nara breathed out her nose and knocked on the door.

Knock, knock, knock- a man’s voice was heard in the room when the knock rang.

“Come in. Browless-nim is inside.”

Shin Nara turned around and walked down the hallway. Leeha was bewildered at the sight of her not looking back.

‘Why is she angry again? Did I say something wrong?’

Does casually mentioning names provide proof of closeness? However, even Leeha was not sure if he was close with Ram Hwayeon.

‘I am not very close with Ram Hwayeon- no, am I close with her? Can it be called friendly?’

However, it was not the right time to think about it because Browless, who was inside, opened the door and came out when there was no response after knocking on the door.

“Leeha-kun!”

“Ah, director-nim! I went to the academy and learned that you were here, so I came here.”

“Right, how was it, did something happen?”


“Yes. Something did happen. Beyond the southwestern border of Minis.”

“Bluebeard-”

“There is evidence that he went there. It seems that he’s plotting something by gathering Ghibrid’s chimeras.”

Browless’ face hardened.

“Ghibrid……? No way, already…?”

It was because one of the worst names imaginable by the participants of the second Human-Demon war hoped and waited not to appear, came out of Leeha’s mouth.

“I will come in and tell you. Ah, wouldn’t it be better to call Luger and Kidd?”

“T-That’s right. Right, I will call them now.”

About 15 minutes after that, Luger, who couldn’t stop frowning and had a gorge between his brows, and Kidd, who trudged along with his hat on, arrived at the palace. The reason they felt down was obvious.

“Ghibrid?”

“Yes, another Demon King’s Fragment other than Bluebeard, ‘Chimera’s nest’ Ghibrid.”

“How did you know that?”

“Bottleneck from Hell Anvil told me about him. Luger hadn’t been there recently, right? No, even if you went, you would have just bought shells. People need to live with a good heart in order to get this kind of help.”

“Cough.

”

Luger frowned at Leeha’s words, but since his words were true, he had no room to refute them.

Before going to the land of the dead, he stopped by the new forge, but he said ‘Shut up and make my bullets, dwarves.’……. There was no way Luger could get information about Ghibrid and the chimeras.

“But I have never heard of it waking up.”

“It’s not awake yet, Kidd. Bluebeard only collected the chimeras that survived the second Human-Demon war. If the northern part, where there were monsters like Crolang, was Bluebeard’s main area of activity, then the southern part appears to be Ghibrid’s main base of activity.”

“Hmm…”


Kidd murmured in regret.

Luger wandered around the Land of the Dead near the land of death and Kidd traveled around the northern snowfields to collect information that could be called a success, but Bluebeard’s actions on Leeha’s side were too decisive.

“Leeha-kun is right. Not everyone can control the chimera that Ghibrid created. Even during the second Human-Demon war, there was an operation to destroy them through mental attacks and brainwashing, but even when all the best mages on the continent gathered it failed. It appears that unless it is a Demon King’s Fragment, it cannot be controlled. Leeha-kun made a significant discovery. You worked hard.”

“Don’t mention it.”

In fact, he had fallen from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s trick and accidentally cleared it, but clearing it accidentally was still clearing it.

Babam-!

A fanfare rang and a notification window popped up in front of the three of them.

『You have completed the quest ‘Demon Noble’ Bluebeard Count Le-2』

『You have acquired 5 stat points as the first to clear the quest.』

The 5 stat points were only visible to Leeha.

Soon after, he flinched for a moment to see Luger looking at him with an expression that seemed to be a spark in his eyes, but Leeha was no longer scared by such things.

‘Did I win?’

On the contrary, he even had enough courage to grin while facing Luger.

When Kidd began to quietly murmur to himself, ‘I’m sure there are traces of him even in the northern part-‘, a notification window appeared in front of the three all at once.

『Demon Noble “Bluebeard” Count Le – 3』

Description: ‘It’s surprising that Ghibrid’s chimeras still exist, but what’s even more surprising is that Bluebeard is using them. It will be a good reason to convince the opposing party of the peace treaty, who was still only talking about gains. You must go and find their tracks. If Bluebeard really woke Ghibrid, then…

Secure conclusive evidence that Bluebeard is on the move.

Browless and the Three Musketeers need to go to the area where Ghibrid’s chimeras are and try to secure evidence.

Content: Obtain information about Bluebeard and Ghibrid’s chimeras

Reward: ??


-Would you like to accept??

“If Ghibrid wakes up, it will be really hard to stop. In a situation where it is difficult to deal with just Bluebeard, if he wakes up, humanity will again….”

Browless’ expression darkened. Although Bluebeard is alone, he is still a Demon King’s Fragment. If the peace treaty is quickly signed and the strongest countries joined forces, peace could be maintained without much damage.

However, what if Ghibrid wakes up?

What if by the time Bluebeard wakes Ghibrid up, Fibiel and Minis hadn’t yet signed the peace treaty and are unable to join forces? There would be rivers of blood. It would not be stopped without great sacrifice. Browless’ goal was to prevent that from happening. All of the Three Musketeers were well aware of its meaning. And they also knew what the quest meant.

‘This must be the last of the chain quests. As for the hidden reward……. And there isn’t a failure condition?’ In terms of content, it was similar to when Browless and the Three Musketeers moved together in the Sentinel Mountains, but this time there was no failure condition such as the death of the user or Browless’ death. In other words, it belongs to the very easy quest…

‘What? Why did the difficulty of the last of the linked quest go down so much? Wouldn’t it be over as long as we find the chimeras?’ Leeha also expected that they would go to the chimera again. Therefore, he thought it would be a difficult quest.

Didn’t they only manage to deal with the chimeras thanks to the soul link skill and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh in human form? Even if he was with Luger and Kidd, he thought it wouldn’t be easy to deal with….

‘Will the director-nim finish it again with doodoodoo? That would be good.’

He was right to think like that. If so, there was no reason to refuse. Leeha, Kidd, and Luger all had similar thoughts. Accepting the quest and creating the party happened in an instant.

“Let’s go, director-nim. I will guide you.”

“Please, Leeha-kun.”

Sssk-!

The place where the Three Musketeers and Browless went was Radcliffe, the city that was newly stored in Leeha’s crystal ball.

“From here, we can head towards the Red Mountains…… but…”

And after getting to Radcliffe Leeha was able to feel something. No, it wasn’t just that.

“Didn’t you say it was a city?”

“Ah, there is also a warp gate in the city.”

“It’s too quiet for that.”

Kidd already pulled out his revolver. Luger also started inserting bullets into the Cobalt Blue Python.

It was a silence that could not be dismissed as simply a quiet place.

“It is strange. This place has a lot of users…. What happened all of a sudden?”

They weren’t mid or low-level users, they were at least level 170. It was highly unlikely that they all joined a single party and went on to hunt.

“It isn’t just the users. I can’t even hear birds.”

“Shitheads. There are no NPCs. Can’t you feel it already?”

Kidd and Luger spoke respectively. There were no shouting users, and there were no sounds from animals or NPCs.

And those who have experienced ‘war’ knew what it meant.

Click-!

Leeha immediately took out Black Bass and listened. The seriousness of the situation could be seen from Browless’ distorted expression.

“My name is Browless, a musketeer from Fibiel! Are there no knights in this city?!”

“Director-”

Baaang-!

Before Leeha could even call for Browless, he had already loaded his musket and fired into the air.

Kidd was surprised for a moment by that thunderous rapid-fire. Attacking within a city is the quickest way to call for the NPC guards. However, there was no response to Browless’ Gunfire. Kidd was taken aback for a moment, then opened his mouth slightly.

“……It looks like no one is there.”

“No way, has- has it already happened?”

“Yes?”

Leeha asked a question, and Browless got even more confused. Unlike the Three Musketeers, who predicted only the degree that something seemed to have happened to this city, Browless seemed to have already grasped the whole situation.

It was only natural that Leeha, Luger, and Kidd wouldn’t know. If the city had been attacked, there should have been some traces left, and right now there were none. The buildings have not been destroyed and there were no traces of blood. There were no such things as corpses. Browless knew exactly what that meant. It was how chimeras worked!

“Leeha, which side is the Red Mountains?”

Browless continued calmly and quietly.

“It looks like the city has already been attacked by chimeras.”

“T-this way. If you go this way-”

“Let’s go!”

Browless immediately loaded his musket and started running. Only then could they vaguely feel it.

‘That’s right, chimeras have venom and acid attacks. In addition, Bottleneck said that they could even eat each other. In other words-’

They should have been eaten, regardless of whether they were NPCs or users, and regardless if they were dead or alive. It was a hair-raising horror. It was even a village, but a ‘city’ with a warp gate, and only a few chimera units decimated it into ruins?

‘No, they were very strong, but not to that extent…’

Leeha was reminded of the situation a few days ago. 

‘Then, isn’t there only one possibility left?’

Most importantly, the movements of the chimeras proved that. Did Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh just move randomly to break the barrier? If that were the case, the chimeras would have eaten each other. There must be only one reason why the chimeras moved with a clear purpose.

“As expected…”

The Three Musketeers and Browless stood stunned looking at the broken structure in the intact city, the castle gate.

“Bluebeard came to this city. And led the chimeras…”

Leeha, Kidd, and even Browless panicked. Bluebeard led the chimeras to attack the city of Minis, then what next? How will they move? Where will they go? What was their aim? As they speculated on the Demon King’s Fragment, the warmonger who was with them laughed.

“Good.”

“Hmm?

“Hmm? What is good?”

“If you have a head, think. Which country does this city belong to?”

Luger smirked. When Leeha tilted his head, Kidd’s eyes widened.

“Are you trying to say that it wasn’t just Fibiel that was attacked?”

“Right. It means that the fire started to fall on everyone’s feet. Director! Don’t you think the conclusion of the peace treaty will be much faster?”

The nickname warmonger was not for nothing.

(To be continued…)

P. S.

That damn peace treaty. When the 3rd Human-Demon war is on the verge of breaking out, they are still talking about profits.

Also, Shin Nara being passive-aggressive is something. Also, Leeha is a dense motherfucker. Insert dense motherfucker meme here.
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 One of the challenges of signing the peace treaty was that only Fibiel was impatient.

Because of that, minis insisted on concluding the peace treaty under the same conditions as before the war.

However, how about now?

All life in Radcliffe, minis’ city, had disappeared!

“……Ho, that’s right. Luger really is a genius at biting at

 weaknesses. No, I should say he is a genius at annoying others.”

“The easiest way to win a fight is to attack the weakness. Don’t you even know that 『Bullseye』?”

When Leeha said those words teasingly, Luger turned his head toward Leeha excitedly. It wasn’t really a compliment as it was a sarcastic remark, but how did he not realize that? Luger even thought that Leeha was not someone who didn’t know about it.

While the Three Musketeers were bickering, Browless finalized everything. And Leeha could see by looking at the notification window that popped up the next moment.

The final quest, a quest with no failure condition, was just one of the procedures to proceed to another stage.

『You have completed the quest ‘Demon Noble’ Bluebeard Count Le-3.』

“Luger-kun, go to Ezwen and meet His Holiness, the Pope, and report about this matter.”

“Okay.”

“Kidd-kun, look at the surroundings and see if there are any other evidence related to chimeras or Bluebeard.”

“Of course.”

Luger and Kidd looked into the air for a moment before replying.

Leeha had guessed that a new quest appeared in front of them.

“And Leeha-kun, come with me to the palace. Let us go persuade the nobles together.”

『Signing of Fibiel-Minis Peace Treaty-1』

Explanation: ‘Those who oppose the agreement won’t be able to do much. If they realize that Bluebeard led Ghibrid’s chimeras and wiped out a city, they wouldn’t be talking nonsense anymore.’


Secure conclusive evidence that Bluebeard is on the move. Browless and the Three Musketeers need to go to the area where Ghibrid’s chimeras are and try to secure evidence.

Content: Convince more than half of the Fibiel nobles to conclude the Peace Treaty within 30 days(0%)

Reward: Signing of Fibiel-Minis Peace Treaty-2

Condition for Failure: Exceeding the time limit

In case of failure: Outbreak of local battles between Fibiel and Minis

– Would you like to accept?

『You are eligible for city compensation.』

『Subsequent rewards will change depending on the additional conditions for clearing the quest.』

‘What,? An outbreak of local battles?!’

Leeha was also curious about the other notification that appeared, but the penalty for this quest was truly astonishing.

Far from reconciliation of humanity, there would be war again!

It will not be an all-out war, but it was natural that the relationship between the two countries would deteriorate because of the local battles.

“We have to go quickly, Leeha-kun.”

“Ah, yes. Let’s go.”

The deadline was not long. Browless had to persuade more than half of the nobles within 30 days, which he could not convince whatever he did.

‘Luger goes to the vatican and just reports, Kidd cleans up the surroundings, but why am I the only one…”

However, who could he blame? Leeha accepted the quest with a feeling of eating mustard seed while crying.

“Then, good luck everyone. Contact me immediately if anything happens.”

With Browless’ words, the Three Musketeers separated again. Browless and Leeha immediately returned to Fibiel’s royal palace.

“Are you going to see His Highness right away?”


“No, we have to convince the ministers and nobles first. Because His Highness would only listen to a unified opinion.”

“Hmm, he can go at them a little stronger.”

“He can’t just do what he wants to do as a king, Leeha-kun. This is why opinions from all walks of life had to be sufficiently gathered so that they would not revolt later. Well, you don’t know because you haven’t been through the Second Human-Demon War.”

Leeha just nodded at Browless’ words. He wasn’t just asking out of curiosity. He wanted to complete the quest by directly persuading the king without persuading the nobles, but it failed.

‘I also have a fair amount of intimacy with the NPCs of the Fibiel’s royal family, but I have only seen the faces of ordinary nobles at most once……. There are more noble NPCs that I haven’t even seen.’

Leeha couldn’t even remember the names of some of the nobles who went to Holy Grill’s opening. In addition, he also wasn’t confident in recognizing the people during the protection of the king’s assassination, and some of the people he met when he went back and forth to the palace when has business there.

For Leeha, persuading the nobles was more difficult than persuading the king. However, it was not possible to change the direction of the already progressing quest.

“Phew……. Are you ready?”

“This is?”

“It is mainly used as a conference room by the nobles.”

How did they get to this point… Browless caught his breath in front of the conference room door.

Someone who didn’t even get nervous when fighting demon nobles in the Sentinel Mountains was nervous now. Seeing his appearance, Leeha became nervous and gulped. If he couldn’t convince the people in here within 30 days, what would happen…?.

“Let’s go in.”

“Okay, let’s go.”

Knock- knock- knock-.

Browless knocked on the conference room door, and after a while, the door opened.

About 40 people were seated around a long oval table.

‘Is this all of them? If this is all of them, the majority would be 21 people.’

Leeha quickly scanned the faces of the people. And he found a red-haired woman sitting next to the seat of honor.

“Ha Leeha?”


“Ah! Ram Hwayeon!”

He remembered what he heard from Shin Nara.

Ram Hwayeon, the only user in the noble faction working on the conclusion of the peace treaty, was sitting there.

“So, according to Sir Browless, another Demon King’s Fragment, Ghibrid, has appeared?”

“No, Count Quintum. Ghibrid did not appear, but Bluebeard is controlling the chimeras that Ghibrid created. Given that it’s hard to handle the demon nobles that are roaming around right now, can you imagine what kind of crisis the country will face if the chimeras appear?”

“Hmm.”

Quintum, who was sitting on the left of the seat of honor, nodded.

Browless had the charisma to instantly take control of the group of 40 nobles seated around the oval table. The normal noble NPCs could not bear the terrifying pressure contained in his quiet and kind tone and polite behavior.

“Do you remember 20 years ago?. I am not only asking the count, but all of you. You must sign the peace treaty and start the search for Bluebeard with Minis, Shazrashian Federation, ezwen and Kraven. There will be no peace for humanity if we cannot completely kill the Demon King’s Fragment.”

Keung-!

It was a perfect persuasion, even the timing of lightly hitting the table with a fist. Leeha stood next to Browless and looked at him with a respectful expression.

He really is a powerful NPC. He is good in battle, he is also good with words …. After all, he’s a ‘hero’ of the Second Human-Demon war, that is why he has this level of natural charisma.’

Browless, an NPC who lost not only wealth but also his most precious colleagues, was motivated to thoroughly prevent the recurrence of the pain of the second human-demon war.

Watching the atmosphere at the buzzing table after Browless’ speech, Leeha was able to quickly pick out the major nobles.

‘I think the count is the second-in-command, but judging by the atmosphere, isn’t he just letting it go as is? The rest of the people who are said to be viscounts and barons appear to not care…. It seems the two of them are the problem…’

Two people did not change their expressions even after Browless’ speech.

A man with a mustache, who was sitting in the center seat and Ram Hwayeon, who was sitting on his right. The two of them still had a detached expression.

At such a meeting, the spirit of Ram Hwayeon, who was the eldest daughter of Hong Kong’s largest conglomerate, the Ram Long Group, was clearly different from ordinary people.

“Therefore, we must propose to His Highness the conclusion of the peace treaty. If Marquis Hujak-nim and Count Quintum help, even Rotzak won’t have any more reason to refuse-”

“Excuse me, please wait a minute. What did Browless-nim say?”

“Hmm? ”

“I am Ram Hwayeon, I manage the overall administration of Castle Dale, including commercial activities.”

It was then that Ram Hwayeon stood up. She politely greeted Browless. Leeha smiled next to him.

‘That’s right, speak up and finish it, Ram Hwayeon! Please help me this time!’

What kind of senses did Ram Hwayeon have? Looking at Leeha, who was standing next to Browless, there was no way she would not be able to grasp what kind of flow was happening.

And Leeha had an unfounded belief that she would help him.

“Yes, Ram Hwayeon-nim. Master of Hwahong.”

“Right. Thank you for knowing.”

“It was nothing. As you are in charge of a castle, I think you also feel the need to sign the peace treaty quickly.”

Browless asked her softly.

The only user among the members of the nobles in the room. Ram Hwayeon’s red hair shook violently at the question that was like a pressure-like question toward her.

“No. Rather, I stood up to give you an opposing opinion.”

“Hmm?”

“May I tell you my opinion, marquis Hujak-nim?”

She looked at the black-mustached man in the center seat with a bright expression. Marquis Hujak nodded.

“Please speak.”

Browless’ expression had already slightly hardened. Leeha barely held back his jaw from opening.

Looking at Ram Hwayeon’s expression, an expression of finding a weakness, Leeha understood why he suddenly thought of Luger.

‘T-This. She’s not on my side-’

He thought it was too easy. How can Ram Hwayeon change in a place where ‘profits’ was mentioned?

“If what Browless-nim just said is true, we should ignore all of Minis’ suggestions as much as possible. Of course, it is impossible to propose the conclusion of a peace treaty first.”

If Luger was a fighter in the battlefield, Ram Hwayeon was a fighter in negotiations, Leeha had forgotten for a moment.

Browless’ expression was completely crumpled.

“Can…… Can you explain what that means?”

“It is as I said. Currently, we have presented the term of the peace treaty to Minis. This means that we do not have to hurry to conclude the peace treaty by lowering the terms first when Minis has not responded yet.”

“Do you remember what I said?”

“The chimeras of Ghibrid has appeared, and Bluebeard is leading and stirring them…… Of course I remember. And I also remember where it is.”

“awhere it is?”

It was the difference between Browless and Ram Hwayeon. It did not immediately reach Browless, who was envisioning a human alliance against the Demon King’s Fragment. However, Ram Hwayeon, a user who had adapted to life in Middle Earth more than the NPC in Middle Earth, knew exactly that.

“They are causing trouble…… in ‘Minis’…… right? Besides, it is in the southwestern part of Minis, and if the chimeras can’t fly, they will not be able to enter our country, right? It means they are running around and playing inside Minis. Then there’s no need for us to get ahead and lower the conditions. Now that the people in Minis are impatient, we need to offer them stronger conditions and make them accept. I don’t want to lower the conclusion of the peace treaty, but rather, shouldn’t we withdraw the conditions we recently proposed?”

Like how a person is in a hurry digging a well. In negotiations, those who act in haste are unconditionally at a disadvantage. Ram Hwayeon was trying to take advantage of the current situation.

“Surely……. You must be kidding. How much damage will it do to Minis-”

“So. If Minis doesn’t want to take too much damage, they will have to accept our terms. Don’t they? Isn’t that so, marquis Hujak?”

“As expected. That makes sense. She’s right, sir Browless.”

Leeha looked at the atmosphere in the hall.

All the people who had succumbed to Browless’ persuasion until just now became all opposition again!

‘T-this is crazy!’

Leeha looked at her face. And he thought it was fortunate that it wasn’t reality. Because in Middle Earth, there was a way to communicate without being noticed by others.

Leeha: What are you doing, don’t you know why I am here? This is my quest!

Ram Hwayeon: Hmp, you think I don’t know? I sensed that much.

Leeha: What? S-So why are you doing this? Help me!

Leeha frowned at Ram Hwayeon and she shrugged her shoulders with an ambiguous expression.

Ram Hwayeon: It’s because you are stupid! Don’t you know why I’m doing this right now?

Leeha: Hmm? What? Interfering with my quest?

Ram Hwayeon: ……Interfering? Interfering!?

At Leeha’s words, Ram Hwayeon’s expression began to freeze. He didn’t express something well! Alas, Leeha wanted to change his words, but it was already too late.

(To be continued…)

P. S.
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 Ram Hwayeon: No, that- not interfere, but- I’m saying this now, Ha Leeha, does it look like I am interfering?!

Shiiinh-!

Ram Hwayeon’s loud whispers made a mess in Leeha’s head. And her glaring eyes, and wheezing breath.

Ram Hwayeon was a calm person that targeted people’s weaknesses during negotiations and other matters, however, she had a hard time bearing Leeha’s words.

It would have been easier if Leeha knew the reason.

Leeha: That, sorry……. Are you mad?

And the wise choice right now was to apologize. And Leeha saw her expression being relieved a little as her emotions had been released even a bit.

While Browless, marquis Hujak, and Count Quintum were arguing again, Ram Hwayeon and Leeha, who were seated, continued whispering.

Leeha: Tsk, you don’t even know why I’m doing this. You know nothing Ha Leeha.

Leeha: Why? Isn’t it your quest as well, Ram Hwayeon?

Ram Hwayeon: Really, I. It’s okay, it’s okay. Let’s not talk. I have my quests too, but do you think this is because of one of my quests?

Leeha: Then? Y-you have to tell me what you’re talking about.

Ram Hwayeon: Look, Ha Leeha-ssi, you’re the only recipient of Fibiel’s Medal of Honor. Have you forgotten your rewards?

Leeha: Huh?

When Browless entered the room and talked about the chimera, Leeha couldn’t understand why Ram Hwayeon was more delighted than him.

Ram Hwayeon: You can get either a castle or city, you fool! The king said he would make you the lord of a castle! Minis can’t give you any right now, but with the latest development, I am trying to turn it around by getting something other tha ‘Castle Van Cowl’! In order to give you a better city than a castle that doesn’t make money-!

Gulp!

Ram Hwayeon’s voice, which had been pouring nonstop, stopped for a moment. She lifted her neck stiffly and made eye contact with Leeha before turning her head slightly.

Leeha: To give to me?

Ram Hwayeon: No! My quest! It’s because of my-my quest is to get as many things as possible from Minis


She was an iron lady who would not break her poker face in any other negotiations. However, her conversation with Leeha made her reveal her emotions all over her face.

Leeha felt rather flustered by the two aspects that Ram Hwayeon showed.

Leeha: I-

Ram Hwayeon: No, aaaaaaah! No, no! It’s because of my quest, my quest! Anyway! T-that’s it. Ha Leeha, when is the deadline of your quest?

Leeha: T, that……. within 30 days-

Rma Hwayeon: Good. Anyway, marquis Hujak and Count Quintum are in the palm of my hand. I will negotiate with Minis as much as possible for about 28 days and expand your options, so let’s see the situation until then. Is that okay?

Ram Hwayeon’s calculations were clearly faster than Leeha.

After getting as many conditions as possible from Minis other than Castle Van Cowl, Ha Leeha will choose from those! As soon as she heard Browless’ words, her calculations had already advanced to this point.

She needed to overachieve her quest, and at the same time, she would be able to give the best reward to Leeha.

Besides, she was confident enough to have an attitude of having the NPCs in the palm of her hand.

Leeha: Thank you. Ram Hwayeon-ssi.

Rma Hwayeon: You’re thanking me. If you’re grateful…….

Leeha: Huh?

Ram Hwayeon: Then, do you remember what I said before?

Leeha: What?

Ram Hwayeon: Good food, food! Find me good food!

Leeha: Ah, right-

“Then, I will leave today, marquis Hujak-nim. Please consider-”

“Don’t worry, sir Browless. Do you think I would want to put humanity in danger? If the wicked Minis come to their senses, there’s no need to be impatient.”

“But the chimera- no, I understand. Then, that’s it for today…. Let’s go, Leeha-kun.”


The moment Leeha was about to talk more, Browless pulled him. Leeha, who was about to speak to Ram Hwayeon, was hurriedly led out of the meeting room by Browless.

“Damn it, it’s a big deal. If Bluebeard and Ghibrid’s chimeras makes a mess during this time- no, if the peace treaty fails-”

“Don’t worry, director-nim.”

“Hmm?”

As soon as they came out of the meeting room, Leeha smiled warmly as he heard Browless speak out his anxiety and lamentations at the same time.

Smiling in this dire situation?

“Within 30 days, the signing of the peace treaty will definitely be finalized. It will not fail.”

“How can you be sure of that?”

“Middle Earth’s best negotiator is inside. Let’s go for today.”

“Uh, huh?”

Leeha pushed Browless’ back and stepped out of the palace. This matter will be safe for now.

Whether it be an ally or enemy, Ram Hwayeon will certainly be the key to this quest.

He could tell just by recalling that she was the fifth-ranked contributor in the national war, with a low level and not even being among the outsiders.

‘All she literally needed was time. As time passes, the condition for clearing will be met on its own. All I have to do is keep in touch with Ram Hwayeon to check on the situation. Although there’s a concern that Minis might get destroyed- it’s not like the Minis rankers are only playing around.’

Leeha was reminded of the top 10 rankers Petyr, Chiyou, and Faust. And even Alexander, who was stronger than them put together.

Quests will be granted in Minis, so he didn’t have to worry about the cities being completely destroyed.

‘Okay then, I should focus on myself for a while.’

Leeha smiled as he left the Royal Palace with Browless. At least one load was off his shoulders.

After reassuring Browless, Leeha immediately logged out, he had to get enough sleep in reality before connecting again.

In Middle Earth time, more than five days had already passed.


“kuooo, I slept soundly for the first time in a while. Then, let’s check the progress first.”

Leeha opened the friends’ window and checked Luger and Kidd’s location, both of them were in places unrelated to the place mentioned where the chimera and Bluebeard were last seen.

Did Browless give them other instructions?

Anyway, with Leeha’s persuasion, Browless stopped being impatient, so there won’t be any quest for the time being.

“Ram Hwayeon is still in the Royal Palace, and Nara-ssi is also there……. I need to go somewhere else before whispering.”

If they knew he was in the capital, they might ask him to stop by the palace and talk to them again. He had a hard time dealing with just a single person, and there were two of them in the royal palace!

It was best not to go to places where he didn’t know what he would get into.

‘There’s nothing good about having a sniper nearby.’

Leeha took out his crystal ball and teleported to Bottleneck’s new forge. It was the most important thing Leeha wanted to check.

“Bottleneck-aju-”

Booom-!

In an instant, black smoke rose from the forge. Explosion? Attack? Thinking was a luxury. Leeha immediately took out the Black Bass and used his skill.

‘Mana Clairvoyance!’

Shhhiiing-.

Only three dwarven figures were caught inside the forge as his vision changed. There was no sign of anyone else.

“Bottleneck-ssi?”

Step, step.

Leeha quietly called the owner of the smithy while stepping on fallen debris. There were no other creatures in sight, but it was only natural to make sure of it.

“Cough, cough, kaaaaak, twe! What? Who is it?”

“It’s Ha Leeha!”

“Damn it, you’re so good at bothering people. Can’t you see we’re risking our lives to work? I will call you when we’re finished!”

“Ah, what were you making? Weren’t you attacked?”

“Attacked? Attacked!? Some shameless and ignorant bastard attacked me for making something monstrous!”

The explosion was a small(?) experimental accident that happened while making the items Leeha requested. Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers coughed and wiped their grimy beards. Leeha felt sad for a while as he saw them somewhat sad. Of course, that was all.

“How are you doing?”

It was more important to Leeha to make sure that the requested item was made well. After all, dwarf NPCs with the highest abilities would not die in an accident.

“Dealing with Dragon Heart is so hard. As you said, the structure is in place, but…. anyhow, can we have a little more items?”

“Hmm, what do you need?”

Although there was a free pass, it was literally just the right to use Bottleneck’s ‘ability’ for free. From the beginning, Leeha was determined to do whatever it takes to obtain the materials if he needed it.

It was also proof that the production level of the item requested by Leeha was so high that it was impossible to make it immediately even though he had even brought a dragon heart and dragon scale.	

“It’s not easy to extract and move the dragon heart’s mana the way you want. It’s because the Dragon Heart has the tendency to absorb mana. If we don’t have parts that can be opened and closed quickly at the moment you take mana out of the storage space and play the role of a nozzle properly, it can only explode just like before. There has to be something that can do the job.”

Leeha shook his head for a while at the explanation. Whatever the explanation was, it meant that an ‘item’ was needed.

“Kek, so what and where do I get it? Just tell me.”

“I need a mineral that can control the flow of mana. I think there should be at least 300g of orichalcum.”

“Orichalcum? Is that the name of the mineral?”

“It is a material called the mineral of god. Get it if you can. It seems it is only possible if we have it.”

Bottleneck’s resigned attitude made Leeha feel somewhat ominous. Besides, it was called the mineral of god.

“That…… where do I get them?”

“Are you asking me that?”

“Huh?”

“It’s the mineral of god! Damn it, go to the Vatican, steal it, and come back. I have only seen it once in my dreams, but I haven’t seen it yet. You can get minerals that are treated as treasures of most royal families.

-”

“A royal treasure?”

A word muttered by Bottleneck made Leeha’s ears perk up. A royal treasure? The Royal family? THe Royal Palace?

“Right. There are cases where the Vatican gives gifts to the kings of each country, albeit in very small amounts. Just know that it is such a rare mineral.”

Can you get it? Why don’t you just give up? Leeha did not get angry after hearing Bottleneck’s provocative tone.

“Is it in the storage room of the Royal Palace of Fibiel Kingdom?”

“What if there is? Are you going to steal it?”

“Yes.”

“W-What?”

“I have to steal it if you need it. It’s only fair. I’ll be back!”

He had rights that he hadn’t used yet.

The right of the first contributor to confidently choose three items at the royal storage. Leeha immediately returned to the capital.

“Such a madman.”

Bottleneck clicked his tongue and shook his head, but he didn’t know how surprised he was going to be.

***

“Should I go inside?”

“Yes.”

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh nodded to Faust’s question, whose skin was white. Faust was taken aback from his resolute attitude. He was telling him to go inside.

“But, as far as I know, the place was-”

“Hahaha, are you scared? Nothing will happen I guarantee you.”

“-Yes, Count, I don’t doubt what the count said, but.…. I just want to say it again. This place-”

“It’s okay, it’s okay. I am here, and there’s red ruffian here too. So what are you afraid of? You just need to dip your feet once and come out.”

Faust could no longer refuse.

He had no justification to refuse Bluebeard, who he promised to swear his allegiance to.

If Bluebeard came out like that, there’s no reason to reject at all.

“Understood.”

Gulp, except for today, Faust had been having a lot of fun following the Demon King’s Fragment for the past few days.

‘Even though the proficiency of the Necromancy skill didn’t go up, the mana amplification by Bluebeard was amazing……

How much did his stats explode from just one tap of the cane?

Faust was much stronger than before with the number of corpses he could control multiplying. In order to maintain this strength, he needs to help Bluebeard and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

“Then I will go in.”

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Bluebeard nodded at Faust’s words.

Contrary to what the Albino Lizardia said while being frightened, what spread in front of him was a space that was no different from normal landscape.

Near the entrance of the snow-covered mountain.

As he took a step there, Faust felt the energy on his body.

‘Madness, this is madness.’

Faust shook his head.

‘Who’ belonged to the space he was stepping into now. The answer was readily apparent.

(To be continued…)
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 Not done

『Kyaaaaaaa!』

A sharp roar came after a while, a white dot rapidly enlarged from the peak of the snow-covered Mountain. Faust quickly cast a spell.

“Bone Shield! Body Bunker!”

With the double casting, it felt like his mana was drained in an instant, but with Bluebeard’s amplification, it wasn’t too much of a burden.

A shield of bones and a wall of corpses instantly appeared in front of Faust.

『Who dared to step into my lair! I will freeze your soul!』

Shyuuuung…….

Blue energy appeared in front of the flying silver dragon’s chest.

『Hwaaaaa!』

What followed was a freezing breath comparable to liquid nitrogen.

Faust was attacked by a breath so cold that it froze the surrounding water vapor and turned them into hailstones. The bone shield and body bunker blocking its path began to freeze in an instant.

“Kuwaaaa, please save me!”

Faust intuitively knew, his mana was amplified and strengthened, but it was too much to block a dragon’s breath!

It was only able to withstand an adult dragon’s breath for a moment. If he continued to stay there, he would freeze, and seeing the body bunker turn into a wall of ice, the white lizardia turned around and ran.

『Stop, you bastard! A lizard that handles corpses dare to invade a silver dragon’s lair! With that filthy mana!』

The silver dragon cut off its breath and increased its flight speed. He could not take the shame of missing a dying enemy on the ground.

『Not even that false courage would be left-』

Shyuuk-!

“You talk a lot, silver youngling.”


As soon as it got out of its barrier, a person appeared next to the silver dragon’s head.

The man with red-shaved hair holding two curved swords, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, snorted as he looked at the silver dragon.

『-Hmm?! Y-You-』

Sssk-!

“Haha, nothing is easier to cook than a dragon that is outside its lair. Didn’t the dung fly warn you not to get out of your lair?”

Another person teleported beside Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

Le had a gentleman’s top hat, a Bluebeard, a silver cane with a shiny handle, and even a smile on his lips.

『Y-you bastards, aren’t you afraid of Bailephus-nim!?』

The silver dragon was startled and tried to use dragon words, but the level of the enemies he had to deal with was too high.

In an instant, blue Beard’s figure floating in the air moved around the dragon at such a speed that even his afterimage could not be seen.

“Now, all mana passages have been blocked. What are you going to do when you can’t even contact that dung fly Bailephus?”

The silver dragon was also a metal dragon. However, instead of going back into the barrier and leaving traces, the dragon, which had more courage than wisdom, chose to fight back. No, perhaps, he knew that even if he tried, he would not be able to enter the barrier alive.

He should have heeded Bailephus’ warning.

To not leave the lair even if there was provocation or abnormality. Fight within the reach of the lair’s barrier that strengthened its power. That way, no matter what happened, other clans would be able to investigate what happened. Because all records were kept of the beings who entered the barrier.

Bailephus gave sufficient warning at the metal dragon clan meeting, but unfortunately, their enemy was a dragon. He knew very well how the warning would be given, and what kind of provocation was needed to make them move.

『I am the silver dragon Silvergeld! Even though you are a Demon King’s Fragment and a red dragon, I won’t be easy!』

“The bronze youngling that had just reached adulthood knew how to measure his strength well but you, someone from the silver clan and had lived for a thousand years…. don’t know how to measure your strength properly.”

“Goodbye, silver youngling.”

Shashasak-!

The silver dragon’s resistance was futile.


Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s curved swords scattered the lights in the air, and after a few seconds, the silver dragon’s head had already been separated from its body.

“Crazy…”

And Faust, who was on the ground, watched.

He was thrilled, no,it was a feeling closer to fear. Could Alexander, the strongest person in Middle Earth that he knew, defeat them?

‘No, let’s not get crazy like Alexander…. No matter how crazy that chuunibyou guy is-’

There was a difference between the first person to reach the maximum level in Middle Earth and the first person to ascend. And the person who shows the difference was on his side. The thrill and fear that Faust felt quickly turned into joy and pleasure.

‘Now, I will become the strongest among the users.’

There was nothing to fear if he was with them. Faust pledged his allegiance to Bluebeard once more.

“How many have we collected so far?”

“Two.”

“Then how many are left”

“Two.”

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh answered Bluebeard’s question. While cutting off the silver dragon’s head and ripping out its dragon heart.

“About that, blocking a dragon’s mana passage is not a big deal. Are we going to finish all of it today?”

“That’s right. If Silvergeld’s death is known, the metal dragons will completely hide”

“This, it feels like you are doing a losing business.”

“You’re saying that but, you’ve never done business before, old man.”

“I have never done it, so what? Cough, now, Faust! Let’s go to the next place!”

Considering their skills, it was truly a joke. Faust listened quietly to them and nodded quickly.

“Yes, Count-nim!”


******

“Ahhh! T-that! You don’t have to do that! Just tell me the location of the palace warehouse!”

Seeing the guards’ expressions change as soon as Leeha touched the crystal ball, Leeha quickly spoke. k happens happens all acc xxx xxx xxx call, he wondered if it would be like that every time he entered the royal palace, but the NPCs, who didn’t say anything about it, were really trying to do the protocol again.

“The palace warehouse? Are you talking about the royal treasury?”

“Yes. Under my authority as a recipient of the Medal of Honor…… I would like to use the royal treasury.”

Leeha wondered if he could say it like that. He had the authority, but while Leeha worried for a moment that he might have asked too brazenly, before he knew it, the guards were contacting someone.

“Could you wait a moment, please? I have contacted the Vice Minister of Finance in charge of the royal treasury.”

“Vice Minister of Finance?”

“Yes. Except for the Vice Minister and Minister of Finance, the general public is not allowed to enter the royal treasury-”

“I see…”

Leeha did not know much about the ranking in the royal palace, but he still had a little knowledge of it. Words such as minister and vice minister came out, it must mean that they were not people with low positions.

It was not a public matter, and they had to call such a person in order to enter the royal treasury.

‘Grunt, it’s not like I want to be hated for no reason. Without notice…. Wouldn’t it be better to call Pei Wu-nim later and go with him? Besides, I thought it was just a warehouse,

 but it was a treasury?’

Hmm, a smile appeared on Leeha’s face, that looked like it was saying ‘I like that at least’.

After waiting so anxiously and excitedly at the entrance of the palace, a man in a robe came running with the hem of the robe fluttering.

“Ha Leeha-nim? Are you Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Ah, yes. I am Ha Lee-”

“It is such an honor to meet the recipient of the Medal of Honor! My name is Lerik, the vice-minister of the royal treasury.”

The vice-minister of treasury introduced himself as Lerik, and grabbed Leeha’s hand with both hands and shook it passionately.

And Leeha’s anxiety was unfounded. Was it inconvenient to go back and forth to the royal storage just for one person? It wasn’t.

“I see, lerik-nim, n-nice to meet you.”

Except for those with managerial authority, the palace warehouse was a place that was not accessible to anyone other than the royal family.

It was a great and glorious job for the finance minister to serve the national hero who had the authority to pick three items there.

“Come, come, let’s go! Let’s go! Only Pei Wu-nim and Granville-nim came, and Ha Leeha-nim didn’t, so I was worried every day!”

Lerik grabbed Leeha’s arm and entered the palace.

Even at the moment of being dragged away by him, Leeha, seeing the guards standing in attention, wanted to sigh.

“I guess it would be underground?”

“Yes, it is in the deepest part of the underground of the central palace, where even that greedy dragon cannot enter without permission, that we have created the royal treasury. His Majesty only visits it occasionally, so no one has come lately. Excluding Pei Wu-nim and Granville-nim.”

“I see……. What did Pei Wu-nim and Granville-nim get?”

“Pei Wu-nim took a bracelet, and Granville took armor and a horse.”

“Horse? Are there any horses here? Didn’t you say it was the treasury?”

“It was a creature made of magic. It was the first time I saw it in action… It doesn’t get tired, it’s faster than a normal horse, and it can even fly low.”

“Really? Is there such a thing?”

“Yes. It’s the first time I have seen it move. It was a strange thing.”

He was amazed at Lerik’s explanation while going downstairs.

That kind of means of transportation?! No, that’s not enough for transportation. If it came into the hands of Leeha, it would be an excellent fighting tool.

‘If only I could fix the Black Bass properly while riding it……. I would really become a tank. Aww, such a shame! I should have come here first!’

When encountering enemies such as Midnight Circus, he only needed to ride it and quickly retreat, point the muzzle, and pull the trigger!

No matter how rugged the terrain would be, it was a mystical creature that could fly so it would not be affected.

Leeha imagined the scene for a while and asked Lerik.

“Do you have any more?”

“Unfortunately not.”

“Tsk…. I see.”

Leeha and Lerik descended for a long time, while Leeha swallowed his regrets.

By the time the surrounding was so dark and gloomy that one would believe it was a dungeon instead of a treasury, lerik finally took out a key and held it.

“Here we are. This is the royal treasury.”

“I am looking forward to it.”

“The recipient of the Medal of Honor, Ha Leeha-nim, can get three items regardless of type.

There will be three of them regardless of weight, so please choose well. Select three items and put them in your bag, and you will automatically be returned here. You have two hours to choose after entry.”

“Yes, I understand.”

Are there any precautions before going in? After Leric kindly explained, he inserted the key into the wall.

“Hold the key.”

“Ah, where should I-! Waaaaah!?”

Shyuuuuuk-! As soon as Leeha held the key, his body was teleported..

Leeha’s body, which was just in front of a door underground, was already relocated into a huge cavity.

“Oh my goodness…”

The place was full of gold and silver treasures. There was a reason for naming it ‘Royal Treasury’ rather than simply a royal warehouse.

Leeha admired briefly before confirming the time.

“Two hours is too short!”

Step, step, step, Leeha stepped on the gold coins on the floor and ran while scanning the surroundings.

‘It is a warehouse, but it was not just roughly piled up. It is surely organized. Most importantly, orichalcum!’

Fortunately, he was able to quickly find it. Gold coins and jewelry on one side, and finished equipment on the other. Leeha had the luxury of stepping on gold coins and ran toward the gold coins and jewelry.

‘This is what it sounds like when stepping into gold.’

The chararal, chararal, chararal sound was pleasant.

Stepping on the sliding gold coins and running, Leeha picked items at random.

‘Item description, item description.’

『Blessed Mithril』

Weight: 130g

Description: A mithril that has been blessed by god. All good beings kneel in front of the material containing God’s providence.

‘……Huh? If it received God’s blessing, shouldn’t it block all demons or something like that? If so, what could be done with Bluebeard?’

Leeha picked up a translucent mineral that glowed softly, but it was not what he wanted.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha swung the mineral he picked up with one hand and threw it.

Leeha didn’t know it, but in fact, the 130g of Blessed Mithril was more expensive than the value of ‘Castle Van Cowl’ that Minis was trying to give Fibiel.

In other words, Leeha threw an item that was more expensive than Castle Van Cowl.

‘Orichalcum, orichalcum!’

『Pink Diamond』

Weight: 4g

Description: Pink diamonds enhance divine power and are four times stronger than ordinary diamonds.

『Red Sapphire』

Weight: 2.7g

Description: Red Sapphire, which is three times more powerful than ordinary sapphires, enhances ice and water magic.

“Not this!”

Swish, swish!

Not even a handful of jewels came to his sight. With the two things that just flew away, it would have been possible to buy a small village. They were very rare items, and their effects were also good, but Leeha was not satisfied with them.

In addition to that, 21 adamantium pieces, a few kilograms of ordinary mithril, and all kinds of precious metals and minerals flashed in front of his eyes…. After rummaging for a long time, a piece of description finally caught Leeha’s eyes.

『Orichalcum』

Weight: 470g

Description: A mineral that can control mana. It is not from this world.

“Uwooooh! Great!”

It also weighed over 300g! He wanted to see if there was a bigger lump than this, but he could not afford to because he spent more than 40 minutes just rummaging through the precious metals! Leeha only had 1 hour and 20 minutes to look for two items that would be useful to him.

“Equipment, equipment, equipment!”


He did not need a weapon because he already had Black Bass, and in addition, he could also depend on Bottleneck, his accessories were also not bad, so if there was anything he wanted to change right away, it was his hat and boots.

‘I’m still wearing the Brown Bear cap and boots, it’s amazing that I haven’t died yet.’

There were countless eye-catching items such as armor with all kinds of patterns in it, and even a one-handed sword that emitted fire from its blades’ edge intermittently.

He wanted to see the item description but he had limited time! Leeha couldn’t hide his surprise even while looking at anything and checking only their approximate level.

‘There are no normal-ranked items! In the first place, there are no rare items here. Is it because it doesn’t fit the name ‘treasure warehouse’ to store them?’

 No matter what he picked up, everything was hero-rank or higher! In other words, there are a lot of weapons on the same level as what Kidd and Luger used.

‘Good, then these boots first-’

The first thing Leeha picked up was a pair of black leather boots.

『Boots worn by fallen hero of the Second Human-Demon War』

Defense: 1,950 Effect: Agility +18, movement Speed Increased by 11%

Dark Magic Resistance +35%, damage Received from Divine Magic +50%

Requirements: Strength 150 or higher, agility 1,500 or higher, intelligence 150 or higher Description: Boots worn by the heroes During the Second Human-Demon War. The battalion commander of the Special Warface Battalion, who led his battalion against the Demon King’s army, had to sacrifice his life to the demons.

There are rumors that it was in order to save his subordinates, but it could not be confirmed. Because all his subordinates also joined the Demon King’s army. There was a record of three divisions of the Human Alliance having one battalion that was stained with demons.

Additional Effect: When 2 or more sets are configured, it is possible to command monsters stained with demonic energy(the number of targets is adjusted according to the total stat points).

（Total Stat points: 2,997/ Number of monsters that can be commanded: 599）

“Wow……? A hero is a hero-”

A hero who joined the Demon King’s army instead of mankind.

True to its description, the resistance to Dark Magic increased, but the user will take additional damage from Divine Magic.

However, it was not the basic effect that caught Leeha’s attention.. It wasn’t a huge increase in defense or speed.

“No, what is this set effect?”


Can monsters be commanded if two or more of the set were equipped? The first thing that came to Leeha’s mind was Crolang.

‘The authority to command monsters, crolang, and the northern troll village! Besides, it sounded like I could command 1 for every stat point…’

Leeha couldn’t help but be surprised to see his cumulative total stat points. No matter how many additional effects he received, how was it close to 3000?!

‘If only I could take these boots and one more item, and the Blessed Mythril from earlier-’

Isn’t it a mineral that could make all good beings kneel?

What kind of synergy would it create with these boots? If he had all of them, wouldn’t he be able to command both of the Demon King’s monsters and God’s NPCs?

And right now, I could instantly command 600 monsters!

‘This is crazy, just looking at the words makes me feel like a demon king.’

Leeha was greatly tempted, but it was a challenging choice. Most importantly, he didn’t have the authority to take them all.

He could only choose two items. Additionally, the blessed mythril did not have a detailed description.

‘It’s not something that can be tested…. There’s no time! I will keep this, and pass on that!’

Leeha set aside the boots first and started rummaging through the mountain of items again.

Even he, who had permission to take 3 items was troubled, then what about Pei Wu who could only take one? How did he feel to have to give up on such a huge number of items, items that were unheard of throughout Middle Earth?

‘No, if he took a bracelet after seeing it, what kind of bracelet could it be?’

Bracelet? Right now, Leeha had not even seen a bracelet yet. Leeha thought that Pei Wu might have found a legendary item.

“It’s not time to think about it, shoes, shoes!”

Shaking his head, Leeha focused on digging into the piles of items again.

Even if he looked at it, all of the boots that were likely to be worn by mages or plate-type boots that were likely to be worn by warriors were excluded, and paper shoes appeared in between, raised Leeha’s curiosity, but he did not look at the detailed explanation.

Bailephus: Ha Leeha, I need your strength.

It was then that he heard a strange voice.


Leeha immediately recalled who the voice belonged to. He did not stop his movement searching for shoes. Leeha: Bailephus…-nim?

It was then that a pair of shoes caught his eye. The calf boots that went beyond the ankle and covered half of the calf, and the dark green pattern on the soft Brown-toned leather, seemed to somehow feel the energy of being with nature.

‘A tree root? Is it a tree vine pattern?’

Bailephus: I need your strength. Is it okay?

Bailephus’ voice came again. At this moment, even the gold dragon was a nuisance to Leeha.

To interrupt this golden shopping(?) time.

Leeha: Yes, it is okay.

Leeha should have realized. What it meant for the gold dragon’s polite request. Leeha’s body, holding the boots with tree vine patterns disappeared.

“Huh?”

Leeha looked around. He was not in the royal treasury where gold and silver treasures were piled up like a mountain until just a moment ago!

He was now in a gloomy cave, with tapestries hanging all over the walls and a light magic cast, so it wasn’t actually gloomy, but Leeha’s mood was gloomy.

“Huh? Ohhh? What!?”

“Thank you for answering my call.”

He was next to a middle-aged golden dragon wearing golden armor, Bailephus, who was polymorphed into human form. Of course, he wasn’t the only one there.

There were people around the circular table who he had never seen before, such as those wearing silver armor, those wearing Brown leather jackets, those wearing robes and holding sticks, etc. Of course, Leeha did not notice them.

“W-what? Where is- the royal palace?”

“Royal Palace? This is the king of the metal dragons, the Dragon Lord-”

“No, what Dragon Lord! What about my items?!”

“What do you mean by that?”

Bailephus’ brows twitched. The gold dragon seemed a little offended, but that was how Leeha was. He already knew it in his head. However, it was not something that his heart could admit.

“Did you summon me? No way?”

“Of course.”

“P-please, send me back, quickly!”

“I can’t send you back. I can’t specify the location coordinates of where you were just now-”

“No, don’t say that! Under the royal palace! Get me back to Fibiel’s royal palace basement- hurry up, I don’t have time!”

He hurriedly waved his hands but Bailephus could not understand right away.

“I don’t know what you mean, Ha Leeha. On behalf of the strangers who have entered this place, I command you to not behave erratically anymore. Act like someone with dignity.”

It was the man sitting behind Bailephus who spoke to him. The figure of Alexander, a man holding a long spear, came into Leeha’s eyes.

“No way, no way, no way…”

Is this what it meant to lose strength in your legs? The opportunity that might never happen again in Middle Earth disappeared into thin air. Leeha, unable to control his staggering body, went to Alexander’s side and sat down with a slump.

“My items……. My treasures…”

Could it be said that it was a fortune among misfortune? Leeha’s hand held the Brown boots he had picked up last.

While the people seated around the table still looked suspiciously at Leeha, an old man with a long white beard wearing a white robe looked at Leeha with a faint smile.

“Heuheu, does he really have the power to solve this problem, Bailephus?”

“Yes, lord Bahamut!”

Platinum dragon Bahamut, King of the Metal Dragons, the Dragon Lord, which only one of the metal dragons can reach!

Leeha was not able to appreciate his appearance ordinary users could not even see.

‘This fucking gold dragon, you should have told me in advance what you will do before summoning me, how the hell would I know what it meant if you tell me that you need my strength? And Alexander ordering me to act properly as a human representative, he’s not my fucking boss to order me around-‘

and so on.

Of course, no matter how much he grumbled inside, it didn’t ease his anger.

Additionally, the opportunity would no longer come back, and the situation had changed. Besides, isn’t this a dragon lair. Leeha had to calm down and pull himself together as much as possible. It is not possible to hit a target that has already passed by pulling the trigger again. Real snipers were people who rediscover new opportunities.

“Come to think of it, this is…

“Are you coming to your senses now?”

“Ah, yes. I apologize for being rude just now, Bailephus-nim.”

Leeha bowed his head toward Bailephus, and the middle-aged man in golden armor nodded with a benevolent expression.

Having already gone through the Blaugrunn incident, his intimacy with the gold dragon had increased.

“It’s okay. Humans always make mistakes like that. Greet them first. This is the leader of the metal dragons, lord Bahamut.”

Since they were sitting at the round table, there was no main seat, but it was clear to Leeha. It was a well-known fact that when polymorphing into humans, the dragon’s appearance changed according to their age. Many of them looked young in Leeha’s eyes, and he was the only old man aside from the middle-aged Bailephus.

“Hello-”

“He sure is an eye-catching human being, Bailephus. He has an unusual ability. In addition, he had already released three of 『Black Bass』s seals …. Good. It’s really good. Amazing. Aren’t you as good as Alexander?”

(To be continued…)
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 It wasn’t that the old man’s tone or expression was surprising at all, but somehow, Leeha definitely felt the nuance. Leeha figured out the situation as soon as he saw the leader of the metal dragons, who had more advanced settings than most NPCs, as well as levels, stats, achievements, and items.

“D-don’t mention it. Thank you.”

Leeha knew what it meant to be recognized at the same level as Alexander by such an NPC. Of course, he couldn’t feel bad.

“Lord Bahamut, I think the praise is too much. Lord Bahamut should know better that no human is stronger than me.”

While Bahamut smiled lightly, Alexander next to Leeha showed signs of discomfort with his arms crossed, but he did not get a reply.

“By the way, why did you…”

“Other cases of damage from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh have occurred”

“You mean other than Blaugrunn?”

“That’s right. The silver dragon Silvegeld, the copper dragon Copperoth, and the steel dragon Steelen.”

An image appeared in Leeha’s head. The first one to be hit was the bronze dragon. It meant that silver, copper, and iron were affected next.

“The type of metal dragons are- no, I’m sorry to say that it is a type-”

“Aside from Lord Bahamut, who is platinum, there are gold, silver, bronze, brass, copper, and steel dragons.”

Bahamut did not have a clan, but a dragon that existed on its own. In terms of clan classification, in fact, 4 out of 6 metal dragon clans had one of their member’s head got ripped off by Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

“That… I don’t mean to meddle, but didn’t Bailephus-nim inform you of Blaugrunn’s death?”

It was only because of him that Blaugrunn came out of his lair, and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh said that he made use of that and that the metal dragons would notice if Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh went inside the lair himself.

That was what Leeha was curious about. How could three more dragons die? The question hit the point, and the dragons sitting around the table, as well as Alexander’s expression, darkened.

“……That is why I called you.”

Bailephus opened his mouth again, breaking the gloomy atmosphere.

“Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh worked together with Bluebeard.”

***


『How dare you enter this place with hostile mana! Even if you have two lives, I will take them both!』

Hooooooool, a soft aura gathered in front of the gray dragon.

A steel dragon’s breath was deadly. A living being would not be able to breathe easily while standing next to it.

“Summon undead, dark promotion!”

kyaruruk- kyaruruk-!

Faust summoned the undead and promoted them. Even the basic skeleton and zombies were stronger than normal skeletons and zombies and with the addition of Faust’s ‘promotion’ skill.

［Kwaaaaa——!』

A poisonous breath went out of Steelen’s mouth and floated in the air. The target was the undead huddled together under his feet!

However, that was a mistake. Steel dragon Steelen’s misfortune was that the main forces of the one who invaded his lair were not living creatures.

The undead drenched in venom slowed down or stopped moving, but they did not turn into ashes. The undead’s resistance to poison proved the level of the beings that Faust summoned and promoted.

『Undead Enforcer and Dullahan? This level of summoning-』

“I was afraid because you were an adult-class, but you’re not a big deal, are you?!”

『This bastard!』

“Bone Shield!”

Even the summoner of the incredible skeleton army and undead monsters was a lizardia. Fundamentally, it was a race that had strong resistance to poison. Faust, who summoned a bone shield, moved as if he would catch Steelen by himself. And that touched Steelen’s pride.

Humans didn’t in droves, and only one lizard was trying to capture him.

『I can’t forgive you, bastard!』

“Huehuehue, come, come!” Faust tucked his tail and ran backward.

Undead enforcers with bone bows and crossbows attacked Steelen, and the dullahan wielded a fierce sword, but nothing could stop the angry dragon.

Bababaaang-!


The dragon quickly flew low and mercilessly blew Faust’s summons away. The undead did not stop attacking to break the dragon’s shield with fragments of their bodies.

What was surprising was that their attacks were more effective than expected.

Faust’s ability, which contained Bluebeard’s mana, was no longer comparable to before.

『These troublesome bastards!』

Faust succeeded in running away while Steelen struggled to remove the undead from his body.

The steel dragon couldn’t help but cast magic on the spot.

『You dare against me!』

Shoooooot-!

Steelen flew while ignoring the undead. All the summoned undead will return once their summoner was attacked anyway, and the correct answer from the start was to attack Faust.

The steel dragon’s movement was fast. Even the moment it broke out of the barrier.

“Metal bastards are all stupid.”

“Keulkeul, how many did we kill in the same way?”

『Hmm? You bastards-』

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Bluebeard gave no further explanation.

Just as if they were doing their assigned word, Bluebeard froze the steel dragon’s mana, and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh raised his sharp curved swords and aimed at its neck.

“I will deal with-eup?!”

“This!”

The moment the curved swords scattered light, a white dot appeared in the blue sky.

The moment it gradually expanded and the dots became planes, Bluebeard and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh felt super-heated flames.

Sssk-!


As the two beings who felt threatened moved to blink, the ultra-high heat breath swept the place.

『Steelen!』

Bailephus, who confirmed the deaths of Silvergeld and Copperoth, patrolled with all of the metal dragons. However, it was unfortunate for Steelen.

“Stupid dung fly, you’re already too late.”

The slowly falling steel dragon already had no head. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh grabbed Steelen’s head and quickly moved away.

『Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh! I will never forgive you! Get ready, Alexander!』

“Anything to punish evil is welcome, my partner.”

Bailephus rapidly charged toward the red dragon. Alexander sat on it and a 7 m-long spear instantly appeared in his hand.

The charge of the first place in the human ranking and the gold dragon had the power to hit just by thinking, however, it did not work against a fragment of the demon king.

“Kilkil, you dare ignore me, dung fly?”

Shyuuk- The figure of an old gentleman appeared in front of the gold dragon. Not only Bailephus but also Alexander recognized him.

『Bluebeard?』

“Eeek- Brandish!”

Bailephus suddenly stopped and Alexander hurriedly used his skill.

Keng-! However, only the sound of metal clashing was heard, and Alexander’s arm did not move anymore. The swing that blew Pei Wu away, was lightly blocked by the tip of the silver cane.

“Hey, get ready to go!”

“Okay, Count-nim! Whisperer smog!”

Hearing Bluebeard’s shout, Faust, who was hiding behind a tree, cast a skill.

“Faust?”

Alexander recognized him, but Faust pretended not to know him. After enough black grains entered the body of the white lizard, it spewed out again.

『Whispering fog! It’s a curse-type mental attack, so be careful, Alexander』

“Hmm.”

Flap- flap-!

Bailephus flapped his wings back for Alexander, opening the distance.

Dispel was only eaten before the magic effect was activated, and he didn’t care, but if Alexander got status abnormality, he would need to fix it with recovery magic instead of dispel.

In other words, Bailephus’ plan was to use dispel only after widening the distance.

『Dispel.』

Shwiiik.

The thick fog that had filled the air evaporated in an instant and disappeared.

The sad thing was that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, Bluebeard, and even Faust’s figure have disappeared.

“We missed. Mana Detection!”

『We cannot detect them. Even if we could, they would notice me approaching them. If Bluebeard and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh joined hands, we could no longer drag this on.』

“What do you mean?”

『……I must go to Lord Bahamut. We must call a clan meeting and we have to call someone who can hide mana perfectly.』

Bailephus also realized that it was not a situation where they could protect young dragons with simple advice.

They had to gather all the remaining dragons in Bahamut’s lair. And he had to call someone who could hit Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh while completely hiding his presence.

“Is there someone like that? Anyone who can handle mana that is not a dragon-class-”

『No, not someone who could handle mana. Alexander, don’t you know. One of the three people who hurt me!』

Shoooook-!

Before Alexander could ask again, Bailephus had already rose and started flying. It took less than two hours for the entire metal dragon clan to gather, and fifteen minutes later, Leeha was summoned.

***

“B-Bluebeard?”

“That’s not all. There was also someone who joined hands with them.”

Leeha asked in surprise, Bailephus nodded, and a more accurate answer came from Alexander.

“Someone? Are you talking about a user, Alexander?”

“There’s a bastard who abandoned humanity and justice. You know him too Ha Leeha. I should have noticed when I saw his dirty job…”

Watching Alexander’s solemn expression fade, Leeha felt something ominous. It’s not like him. In other words, he is a famous person that everyone knows.

“They aren’t a ranker, right……?”

“He’s a ranker 8th in the rankings, necromancer Faust!”

“……That’s crazy……. No way.”

In an instant, the item from before came to Leeha’s mind. An item that could control monsters that were infected by demonic energy. There are also achievements. Yeah, he hadn’t thought about it, but… there was no reason why other users couldn’t be on the demon kings’ side just because they were users. Middle Earth always gave hints. Can only Faust join the Demon King’s army? It couldn’t be!

‘Could this be like the national war that divided two camps? The fragment of the demon king must be stronger than the Human Alliance, but to split the power of humanity? Middle Earth is crazy! What are they trying to do?’

What Leeha imagined was a terrifying ending. A future in which the Demon King’s army completely wins. Then how will the continent flow?

However, if one looked at the current flow, there was nothing strange that would happen.

In any case, humans were still struggling without harmony, and the Demon King’s Fragment was already moving along with the strongest chromatic dragon.

In this situation, if a large number of ranker-level users switched to the other side, Leeha’s imagination would become a reality.

Most importantly, Middle Earth’s unpredictability was the problem.

He couldn’t predict what would happen, but he had to imagine that everything would be possible.

‘No. That should be stopped. I hope it won’t ruin the game, but I don’t know what the updates would be, anyway- I don’t want such a sudden change!’

A drastic change could not be good for Leeha.

Sooner or later, he might receive a city or castle as a reward.

He is currently trying to establish a stable profit structure in Middle Earth, but what if the Demon King’s army dominated the continent?

All of his efforts would be for nothing!

Not only for the flow of the story but also for extremely realistic reasons, it was necessary to cut off the flow of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and the Demon King’s army.

While Leeha was organizing his thoughts, Bailephus opened his mouth again.

“We have already lost too many clan members. I urgently summoned all of you, but we can’t just stay like this.”

“Ah, come to think of it, all of the people gathered here are metal dragons, right?”

“Yes.”

Leeha quickly scanned the area around the round table. Excluding Alexander, Bahamut, and Bailephus, there were about 30 people in human form.

The number of dragons already hit was four. It meant that more than 10% of the members of the metal dragon Clan have died.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘If one sees a lot of chromatic dragons, one should avoid them. If the damage inflicted on one side already reached more than 10%, it can be considered that the balance had already been broken.’

Was there any way to prevent damage?

They have already done the basic precaution.

“Will you stay here indefinitely?”

“This is the lord’s lair. It’s just a stopgap. Most importantly, in each clan member’s lair, there are knowledge, information, and all sorts of treasures that have been gathered and accumulated for thousands of years. If they fell to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s and Bluebeard’s hands, the damage they could do would be hard to ignore. Humans cannot recklessly enter the lair even if we are away, but Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Bluebeard are different stories.”

“……I see.”

Leeha had a hunch that the demon king’s army might take a method of buying users with money. In the end, each dragon must protect their own lairs. It meant that they could not stay in the lord’s lair for a long period of time.

“How about talking to the chromatic-”

“I made an official complaint to the chromatic dragon clan, but they just pretended to listen. Anyway, only one individual is running rampant, and the chromatic dragon council had already officially expelled Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.”

“Damn it…”

Leeha didn’t think it will do much on the subject of dragons, but there’s no way to protest if they come out like that.

“Neither Lee Jiwon nor Luger could help with this matter. Neither lord Bahamut nor anyone in the metal dragon clan can help”

“Why- Ah, is it because of mana detection??”

“That’s right. Not only Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, but also Bluebeard is good at detecting mana. No matter how well one hides, it will never be easy.”

Therefore, a person who could wait in advance and had the ability to perfectly hide their mana was needed. It was for that reason that Bailephus thought of Leeha.

Because of Black Bass’ skill, camouflage could even ignore a dragon’s mana detection.

“Moreover, after blocking the space, it will be difficult for even the most talented people to approach.”

“Aren’t dragons masters of magic?”

“But there are not many beings that can penetrate the space blocked by a dragon, Ha Leeha. It would be possible if the lord stepped forward, but…. We cannot expose the lord to such danger.”

And you are okay with me being in danger? But it didn’t fit the mood to ask such a thing.


In any case, putting the leader of the metal dragons is similar to making the king of Fibiel fight the king of Minis.

Leeha understood Bailephus’ feelings.

“Well, I don’t think we can even get other dragons to participate. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s movements were in order to gather different clans of dragons, right? Besides, if the bronze, silver, copper, and steel dragons were defeated, the next target could be the brass or gold dragon. No, maybe that’s a trap, and it’s just the head, regardless of species…”

“As expected. Did you already notice?”

Hearing Leeha’s words, Bailephus put on a pleased expression for a moment.

Currently, the red dragon had already taken four types of dragon heads. The problem was that not only Leeha but even Bailephus did not know the requirements for summoning Tiamat.

Tiamat, who had only appeared in a record that it was a six-headed dragon. What must be done for a forgotten legend to appear?

Did it need six metal dragon heads? Or was it like five normal dragon heads and her own head to make six heads?

Or did she need five or six dragon heads regardless of whether it was chromatic or metallic? If she only needed five or six metal dragons, should they be from different types? Or should it just be filled with unidentified types?

The metal dragon clan was wise, but they did not know all of the secrets of the chromatic dragon clan.

In the end, it meant that now that the current situation was like this there was only one way left, the best way from the start.

To make the metal dragons no longer visible to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

In that situation, they must kill the red dragon.

“Bailephus thinks that you can help our clan.”

“M-me?”

Bahamut, who had been staring blankly at Leeha, who was talking to Bailephus and Alexander, opened his mouth.

“Blaugrunn must have believed that too.”

“Ah…”

Of course, Bahamut would know. Blaugrunn, the bronze dragon, personally handed his dragon heart to him, and Bailephus was there as a witness.

“Will you help us, human?.”


Shwaaa…….

As soon as Bahamut finished speaking, a quest window appeared in front of Leeha.

『Enemy of the metal dragon Clan』

Description: ‘In the name of I, the Platinum Dragon Bahamut, the lord leading the metal dragons, ask your help. We can no longer do anything with only the power of dragons. You are the only one who can solve this situation. Carry on the will of Blaugrunn and become the power of Bailephus to slay the red dragon. You have to stop the resurrection of Tiamat.’

After a strong recommendation from Bailephus, dragon Lord Bahamut decided to recruit outside forces to protect the metal dragons.

However, if the fact that they used external power was known, the chromatic dragon clan will not stand still, so if the work was done safely, the dragon lord wants to treat you as a part of their family.

Don’t worry about the aftermath and join forces with the gold dragon Bailephus to kill the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

Content: Death of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh

Reward: Affinity with Metal Dragons +30%

Platinum Dragon Lord Bahamut’s permission to get one item from Bahamut’s Lair, achievement – Platinum Dragon’s Power

Condition for failure: Bailephus’ Death, Tiamat’s summoning

Failure: Affinity with all metal dragons -60%, achievement – Dragon’s Rage

– Would you like to accept?

‘Huh?’

Leeha also expected a quest to appear, but the content was less than he expected. Having to deal with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh alone with Bailephus without any dragon’s help.

It didn’t matter because there was also a quest he had received from the bronze dragon Blaugrunn. Rather, this quest was much simpler, requiring only to kill Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh without any condition.

However, he could only tilt his head for a while about the reward.

‘Family? It means to be part of the family… Relatives, family members, ‘family’.

It was clearly written in the quest description.

“The dragon lord wants to treat me as its own family. Could this be…?’


It would have been more strange if Leeha’s eyes were not wide open.

“It will never be easy. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh isn’t alone, and Bluebeard will surely join. No, maybe humans on that side will be enemies. The two of us will have to deal with them.”

“Ah, what about Alexander?”

Shouldn’t Alexander go with them? However, both Bailephus and Alexander shook their heads at Leeha’s question.

“As I said before, even if only my partner by my side, he will not show up. I need to be completely alone…. I will lure him in.”

“Lure him. I see.”

“I don’t know how they will summon Tiamat, but in a way, it would be the right choice for me to step up, so whether he just needs a fifth head or a gold dragon’s head, he will not be able to resist aiming for my head.”

Bailephus was indeed an adult metal dragon. It meant that he will act as bait by putting himself in danger.

He decided to, knowing that there was not only Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh but also Bluebeard…. In fact, the gold dragon was prepared for death.

Hearing what Bailephus said and pondering while looking at Bahamut’s quest window. About catching Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, and what happens after that.

And one thing came to mind. Did he come to be here now?

‘Bargaining.’

『Bargaining skill has been activated.』

『The chance of the target being persuaded increased by 43%.』

“I have to tell you something, lord.”

“Huh? Something?”

“Bailephus said that the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was expelled from the chromatic dragons.”

“Yes.”

“And it is said that all dragons keep the knowledge, information, and treasures they have gathered over the years on their own lairs.”

“That…… is right.”

“Then, after Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh dies, what will happen to his lair? The chromatic dragons said they had officially expelled him, so they wouldn’t have done anything ignorant like touching it, and he will probably return.”

Leeha was the only recipient of the Medal of Honor, but he lost two of the three rights to use Fibiel’s royal treasury.

‘I even brought shoes I don’t know what the effects are, and I brought it not because I wanted it! If fact, I lost two chances, so, of course, I should get them back, right?’

The old man’s face was stunned for a moment at Leeha’s question. Even more flustered was Bailephus in his golden knight form.

“Ha-Ha Leeha! How dare you say something stupid in front of the lord? Now that-”

“Yes, that’s right, Bailephus-nim. I was suddenly summoned at a very important moment- the moment when I might find a treasure. Do you remember how I reacted when you summoned me?”

“Still, in a place like this-”

“Does a person who defends justice put money in his mouth, Ha Leeha!”

Bailephus was flustered, Alexander was angry, and even the other metal dragons were looking at Leeha with an expression saying ‘What is it all about?”

Leeha’s target for bargaining was instead smiling.

“Hahaha!”

A benevolent laugh filled the cave.

“Indeed…… indeed! Bailephus, I think I know why you like this human!”

“I-I am sorry, lord Bahamut.”

“No, no. I don’t know how it has been. Bargaining with me! Even before I was reborn as Bahamut, even before with my entire life as an ancient wyrm I feel that it could be counted with my hands.”

Ancient Wyrm.

According to the setting, it meant that a dragon had lived for more than 10,000 years, but Leeha wasn’t surprised about the age system of the dragons. And that attitude seemed rather bold to Bahamut.

“Okay. Very nice, human- no, Ha Leeha. If that’s the case, I will make a condition-”

『Enemy of the metal dragon Clan』

Description: Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s dragon heart recovery

Additional reward: Permission to get 5 items from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh Dragon Lair

“-Bring his heart. It’s something that humans can’t use anyway, and that alone can help make use of his lair.”

“Hmm, humans can’t handle it, but dwarves can?”

Leeha could not say it.

Even after the dragon dies, should the dragon’s heart, which was close to an infinite energy source, be given immediately? Clearly, just looking at the value of the name, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s heart weighs more!

‘However, when he took Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s heart, the question is whether I could let it go.’

If there was no such bargain, would Bailephus have wait and see? The odds of that happening was small. It meant that there was a high chance Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s dragon heart would get stolen anyway.

“Okay, lord Bahamut. I will kill the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and bring back his dragon heart.”

Most importantly, wasn’t there already an additional condition for Leeha?

Before Bailephus devised any plans, Leeha must use Blaugruns’s dragon heart to kill Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘There’s no guarantee that his dragon heart is in good condition considering how it died.’

Because that was the condition for completing Blaugrunn’s quest, and Leeha was confident.

Shyuuk-!

Bahamut’s figure, which was on the other side of the round table, moved in front of Leeha in an instant.

“Humans call it moon at times like this.”

The old man in a white robe smiled and held out his hand.

“It is also called good business. I was taught that financial matters should be clear even among family members.”

Leeha also smiled and held his hand out.

“Hehe, that’s right. It really makes me happy, it’s very nice. Very good.”

Leeha’s remark once again confirmed whether the meaning of authority and family was really that. And Bahamut smiled and accepted what he meant.

“It is like seeing a new era in the continent’s history, partner.”

“…That’s right, Alexander. Even I, who received the title of executor, is seeing this for the first time.”

It was a sight that surprised even Bailephus and Alexander, who were watching on the sidelines.

“I trust you, the one whom Bailephus-nim and Lord Bahamut chose.”

“Don’t mention it.”

“Thank you human, Ha Leeha.”

“Yes, I look forward to your kind cooperation.”

The metal dragons sitting around the round table came and greeted Leeha one by one.

Not to mention how they acted toward Bahamut, they didn’t have much of a sense of rejection to those who are already close to 80% intimacy with the metal dragon clan. After the long introductions, while leaving Bahamut’s lair Leeha asked Bailephus.

“Are you really going to make yourself the bait?”


“That’s right. I will go back to my lair, and lure them with my mana.”

“Hmm… They might think it’s a trap.”

“Of course. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh is not a fool. But even if he knows it’s a trap, he would try to come.”

“That’s true. Because there’s no metal dragon left.”

And he had the power to destroy traps. What would he be afraid of if he was with Bluebeard.

“How long would it take to prepare?”

“I have to go to a few places first. And I also need information about the terrain around Bailephus-nim’s lair. The must be more things to analyze and prepare than I thought”

“Hmm. A moment.”

Bailephus opened his eyes for a moment. Wooosh-! As soon as he opened his eyes, a newly made scroll appeared in the air.

“It is a map that shows all the topographical features of 5km near Rare. Is this enough?”

It was a map.

“Oh……. D-dragon’s abilities are truly amazing.”

How much would Fernand have liked it if he knew? Leeha politely accepted the map and put it in his bag.

“Prepare quickly and contact us. There’s no time.”

“Okay. Ah! Bailephus-nim.”

“Hmm?”

Leeha, who was about to take out his crystal ball and go to Hell Anvil, asked one last question to the gold dragon.

“Didn’t you say that no one can penetrate the space blocked by dragons of Ancient Class or higher?”

“That’s right. It was also the reason why dragons cannot notice it immediately. Unlike general magic, space magic requires a thorough understanding of coordinates, so not only human mages but also ancient dragons-”

“Hmm, I see. I’ll contact you as soon as I am ready!”


Leeha cut off Bailephus’ words and activated the crystal ball.

Sssk-! As Leeha’s figure disappeared, the golden knight, who had been speaking, shook his head.

“He really is an unfathomable man.”

“Not all humans are like me, my friend.”

Alexander, whose personality was optimized for Middle Earth, held his shoulder.

“It would be nice if there were people like you who are for justice, Alexander.”

“Of course. Isn’t that what I’m here for? To teach and spread justice and goodness to humankind.”

Alexander nodded his head as he listened to Bailephus’ words, whether it was a curse or a compliment. In a way, they were a really good pair.

****

“Bottleneck-ssi!”

“W-what? Why do you have such a bright expression? It’s so ominous.”

“What kind of embarrassing words are you saying?”

As soon as Leeha arrived at Bottleneck’s new smithy, Leeha got busy.

It was because it would be unfavorable for him to slow down as long as he knew that Faust, top 8 in the rankings, was on the side of the Demon King.

“Did you finish what I asked for?”

“I can’t do it because I don’t have enough items-”

“Okay, the item is here. You don’t have to worry. For the stabilizer.”

“Huh? this-”

As soon as he finished talking, Leeha took the item out of his bag and put it in Bottleneck’s hand.

The dwarf NPC’s eyes widened as if it was about to pop out at the mineral he hadn’t seen in a long time.


“This is Orichalcum. It weighs over 400g, would that be enough?”

“I can’t believe you really stole it……?”

“That’s embarrassing. Do you think I am a thief?

I am better than you think. I don’t have much time, so tell me quickly. Is that enough?”

“I-It’s enough. I’ll have to experiment a bit more and try it first. No, but where did you get this?”

“I heard there would be some in the royal treasury, so didn’t I just have to get it? It was a situation that Bottleneck could not understand. He had no interest in human war, so he had no clue about Leeha. Even if Leeha handled and gave the mineral like a stone, he handled it with both hands and entered the blacksmith carefully, afraid that he might trip and fall over.

And after a while, he came out looking like a skeleton.

“I made it as you described.”

“Oh…. Are you okay?”

One of the items Leeha ordered was a stabilizer.

It refers to the item necessary to increase his accuracy, such as a bipod, which minimizes vibration transmitted to a rifle by leaning on a fixed place in contrast to simply being held by hand.

Of course, he already had a bipod, and this time what Leeha wanted wasn’t just for accuracy.

“Now, first, tighten this waist support like a belt-”

“Hmm, the pressure is fine.”

“And you just need to attach the protruding bar to the barrel of the Black Bass.”

Click-! It was like a third arm protruding from Leeha’s back to support the Black Bass.

One of the problems Leeha experienced during battle was the rapid movements of the targets during battle.

In order to maintain a certain level of accuracy with the long and large Black Bass, he had to go through three stages: muzzle rotation, kneeling posture, and shooting. But what if he had this thing?

‘It’s light. The rifle is fixed even if I don’t support it with my arm.’

All he had to do is change the muzzle direction and fire. In other words, he would be able to achieve the same level of accuracy whether it was kneeling or standing position!

It can make his combat speed tempo in close combat faster.

‘Besides, it also has an effect on the range. The effective range increases as recoil and trembling are removed.’

If the recoil while laying down is minimized by using both a bipod and stabilizer, the dissipation of kinetic energy would also reduce.

It meant that it was an item that can simultaneously increase his accuracy while in a standing position and range while laying down.

“It’s good.”

“It’s not just good! Not to mention the weight reduction, when I moved it, how much did I have to work to improve the movement of this bar-”

“Haha, okay. Thank you. Ah! Are you done dividing the dragon heart? Can you give them to me in bullet form?”

Bottleneck grumbled, “He’s not even listening to the explanation.”, but still gave the dragon heart bullets to Leeha.

“Now, listen to the explanation- not only that stabilizer but also using this orichalcum-”

“Ah, I can’t listen to it anyway! I will leave the engineering details to Bottleneck-ssi, so please take good care of the rest of the items!”

“……He’s a damn bastard after all.”

Watching Leeha wave and leave, Bottleneck spat out words.

However, it was neither blaming Leeha nor cursing him. It was just a pity that he wanted to talk a little more, and he respected him for bringing the orichalcum so fast.

“It seems the connection is complete……. Somewhere around here.”

The last place Leeha visited was a dilapidated village in Fibiel. There were no players or monsters around.

Now all the NPCs have left and only a few buildings remained.

‘Hmm? It must be here.’

Leeha found a very small human presence.

“Cough!”

Boom- boom- boom-.

Silence flowed as he knocked on the door while coughing.

A person’s voice, which had been coming out finely, disappeared in an instant. He wanted to tease him one more time but didn’t.

“Haha, Kijung-ah! It’s me! Tale-nim, Biyemi-nim! Are you inside?”

The place Leeha went to was one of the Byulcho guild’s safe houses. He confirmed that everyone had already gathered.

“Oh, what a surprise! I was wondering who it was! What’s going on, eong-ah?”

Creaaaak-!

The door opened and the members of Byulcho, including Kijung, came out.

He wondered what kind of conversation the upper-ranking executives of Byulcho were having, Tale and Biyemi also seemed to be a bit nervous.

“I just came to talk. Shall we go inside?”

As Leeha tried to hold the door Tale and Biyemi sneaked in in front of him.

“C-Cough. That-……. We haven’t sorted it out right now. Why don’t we just talk here, Leeha-kung.”

“Kiskis, or if you want, we can go to the capital. We can go to a pub-”

“Why though? Can’t we just go inside?”

As expected. Seeing their reaction, Leeha wanted to laugh. He was sure his hunch was right.

Byulcho was one of the guilds that prevented the noble demons from doing too much damage.

Rumors had already spread somewhat in the community about who and how Byulcho was active.

“Hmm…… hyung? The time is tight right now. Can I listen to you next time?”

“Hahaha, Kijung has grown a lot. You’re already hiding something from me.”

“No, that’s not-”

“I know everything”

“What?”

Kijung’s expression froze as Leeha smiled. Biyemi coughed, and Tale’s expression also somewhat darkened.

They deserved this reaction. Leeha shouted loudly over Kijung’s shoulder and toward the inside of the safe house.

“For the one inside! Are you listening? I couldn’t even say hello properly last time, so can I see your face!”

“Ahhhh”

“That- hyung, so what happened was, I was going to tell you-”

Kijung panicked, but it was already too late.

Creeak…….

The person inside the safe house opened the door and came out.

“Your impression has definitely changed since we first met. Long time no see.”

“That’s refreshing. Didn’t we meet in the middle of Minis? I even shot your face once.”

“Should I be thankful for the expression ‘once’. Hut.”

“Well, there’s someone else who I really want to shoot in the face. But you know you can’t play the victim, right?”

“I would appreciate it if you looked at me as a scapegoat for a lot of sins.”

“Kek, anyway.”

The young man with an intelligent appearance spoke without losing his words to Leeha.

Leeha smiled as he saw his attitude, which had become much calmer and more subdued than before.

Leeha also knew it. The feelings of this person who had literally become like a ‘sinful scapegoat’. However, even if he was an enemy before, he could not be an enemy forever.

He lost his job because of his own greed, but didn’t he help Leeha once?

Although Leeha did not know the details, he had already apologized to Byulcho’s members and had considerably solved the misunderstanding.

Of course, it wasn’t just because of that reason.

Leeha knew and acknowledged his skills.

“Hyein, can you break through a dragon’s space lock? Ancient level. It may be even more powerful than that.”

The strongest sage amongst users.

Even the ancient gold dragon Bailephus needed the power of a space magic expert who had stopped him for a few seconds.

(To be continued…)
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 “The word ‘ancient class’ is surprising, but if it’s more than that. I don’t know what you mean.”

“You know what I mean. There is nothing more to it. It’s a dragon with a similar strength as the gold dragon we saw back then. That guy…… or Bluebeard will block the space. Will you be able to break through that?”

“Hmm…”

Upon hearing about the two beings Leeha mentioned, all of Byulcho’s members’ expressions changed, however, Hyein’s expression was relatively calm, and it seemed that he was already calculating.

‘As expected, the original guild master is better.’

The person who established and developed Byulcho, appeared to be above average in terms of intelligence.

 He is certainly calmer than the current guild master of the matured Byulcho. Leeha compared their facial expressions and smiled.

“Eong-ah? Why are you smiling? You’re talking about the red dragon that the gold dragon mentioned before, right? Besides, Bluebeard? The Demon King’s Fragment? Did you fight him already?”

The current guild master of Byulcho stared at Leeha, he was so flustered that his eyes almost popped out.

“Kiskis, I guess you were clearing all the quests alone while we were clearing up the trash, weren’t you?”

“It’s not trash, Biyemi-kun. Base defense is also a great quest. Like the saying, there is a reason why we are all gathered here.”

“That’s what they say, Tale-nim, kiskis.”

Biyemi jokingly asked if Leeha was doing anything fun without inviting them, but it was definitely not a simple quest.

It was clear that the quests imposed on the large guilds of Fibiel, such as Byulcho, rush, and Patriot, also carried a heavy responsibility.

Every time they failed to defend, the damage was not negligible. It could either be the loss of a small village, a large city, or a province of Fibiel.

“And ancient dragon’s space lock… I have broken through the lock of an adult dragon, but for an ancient dragon, well…”

“You were able to stop the gold last time too. Bailephus even used a surprisingly strong magic. I don’t know when you have broken through an adult dragon’s space lock, but you are much stronger now than back then.”

Leeha clearly remembered what happened in Minis. Hearing that, Hyein smiled lightly. It was partly because he felt good about being recognized, but it was also because he was curious about Leeha’s intentions.

“Of course I am, but…. May I ask you something?”

“What is it?”


“Why are you like this to me?”

“Why?”

“I once tried to betray you- no, I actually betrayed you…. I tried to kill you. Not just kill, but slander and blame you.”

He was responsible for going to war with Ram Hwayeon’s guild and missing Castle Dale. Hyein tried to blame Leeha and Kijung for everything. Even if he was fooled by Sasuke’s fabricated information, it was Hyein who made the decision in the end. As he expressed earlier, he was more like a ‘sinful’ scapegoat. In other words, why was Leeha telling him such an important thing?

“Do you think I trust you?”

“Yes.”

“I don’t.”

“Hmm?

“Hmm?”

“T-then……”

“I don’t trust you. I am giving you a chance to prove yourself.”

“Prove…… myself?”

“Yes. So prove yourself. Because only you can increase your value.”

Leeha smiled and held out his hand. Trusting someone cannot be done overnight. And not only Leeha but also Hyein knew that fact very well.

“That’s more terrifying than telling me that you believe me.”

Taak-!

Hyein smiled as he held Leeha’s hand. Their names appeared in each other’s friend window after a long time of being disconnected.

“Kiskis, halihali-ssi, not only your shooting skills, but also your speaking skills have improved a lot.”

“Isn’t it Leeha hyung? ‘If you talk nonsense, I will blow your head off!’ Well, those words were more like hyungnim……”

“Hmmm! It’s a class that only those with underlying skills can have.”


And seeing that, byeolcho’s members tilted their heads.

“I will contact you as soon as I am ready. We will start in three days at the latest.”

“You can contact me anytime.”

Looking at Hyein’s smile, Leeha was convinced. That he had gained a reliable ally, a person who would become a great variable in the upcoming battle.

***

Step- Step-

Stepping on fallen leaves, Leeha wandered around unfamiliar terrain. It had already been a day and a half.

“It’s a pity that even Madame Ju couldn’t help with this.”

Even the intelligence guild in the capital, the Holy Grill, which prided itself on knowing everything, couldn’t get involved in anything related to dragons.

‘Our lives are precious.’

Leeha felt a lot from Madame Ju’s short reply.

Users will revive if they die, however, it will be the end of an NPC’s life if they die. In that respect, the NPCs of Middle Earth knew how to value their own lives more than the users.

In the end, in a situation where he had to find out everything on his own except for the available information, Leeha went to the vicinity of Bailephus’ lair and compared his map with the actual landmarks.

“As expected, there are no monsters because it’s near a dragon’s lair…. Is it safe for now that there are no obstructions?”

He may be able to use camouflage, but the fact that there would be monsters around can be a distraction. In the worst case, there could be a situation where they cover Leeha’s view at an important time.

Bailephus, an ancient dragon, had a deep and wide lair. Compared to the somewhat shabby lair of adult dragons, there were certainly many elements that drive away and repulse intruders.

However, the biggest problem was that they didn’t know where ‘Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’ would appear.

‘But it doesn’t make sense to have them fight in front of the lair. The red dragon won’t come that far.’

What if Bailephus didn’t immediately attack when he entered the barrier?

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh definitely knew that Bailephus leaking his mana was a trap. He would also consider variables when he tried to run away. In other words, the battlefield is near Bailephus lair, but Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh can choose where it is.


No matter which barrier Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh entered, Bailephus needed to react immediately and go there. And predicting where that place would be was the next task.

‘That’s what sniping is originally like. It really doesn’t take much effort to actually shoot. But finding a shooting spot and creating an opportunity to shoot is what real sniping is. Besides, I won’t even be able to move after using camouflage…’

The moment Leeha moved, the camouflage skill would be canceled. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who was an expert at detecting mana, would immediately find him.

‘Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’, who had already taken a shot from Leeha, will not give him another chance. If that happens, it would be a total disaster. It meant that he could not change the position he chose now.

“It gets more complicated when I think about the possibility of not only shooting it on the ground but also shooting it in the air. It’s easy to say that I need to find a place that will cover all these anticipated battlegrounds! I’m not some kind of dragon…. Oh?!”

There was no way for Leeha’s stamina, who had been wandering through the whole mountain, to be fine. Leeha, who staggered after stepping on a sharp stone, decided to take a break for a while.

‘Phew……. Considering all the scenarios, there are only two strong candidate: A-Spot and B-Spot. However, if I got to A-Spot, there is a point that is out of range in the air, and in case of B-Spot, there is a point that is out of range on the ground, which is a problem.’

Even as he sat down, his eyes did not get off the map. There were two possible sniping points. Leeha had an effective range of about 2km or less.

‘If the range is a little longer, a-Spot that secures my stability would be the best. It’s hard to do everything.’

Shaking his head, Leeha tried to get up from his seat, but an item suddenly popped out of his head.

“Ah, right!”

He pulled out the item he had hurriedly put into his bag at Bahamut’s lair. What Leeha took out was a pair of shoes from Fibiel’s royal treasury.

It was a luxurious Brown leather, with a drawn pattern that radiated subtle green light. It’s as if they absorbed the energy of the mountain.

“Ah! I also have this. I wish there was a function that made me run faster in the mountains. It would be better if it gave the ability to fly. Yaaaap!”

And Leeha opened the item details window.

『Legendary Boots of a Deep Rooted Tree 』

Defense: 2,050

Effect: Agility +25, skill- Joint Fixation: Lower body

Requirement: Strength 100 or higher

Agility 1,900 or higher

Description: Boots worn by a legendary archer. He has a history of piercing an apple placed on his son’s head from the distance of 1km. The continent was enthusiastic about his unshakable arrow like a giant tree.

Onlookers testified that roots and trunks of trees sprouted on his knees, ankles, elbows, and shoulders to support his body, but nothing has been revealed.

“Legend ……rank?!” Why did it look so bad? Leeha barely stopped his words from coming out. It gave a lot of agility, and an unknown skill, but that was all! The boots didn’t even have a basic movement speed increasing effect!

‘What, this? There’s no set effect- no magic resistance or extra damage?’

At first glance, Leeha couldn’t help but be disappointed with the effect similar to an ordinary item. However, if there was one hope, it was the description of the skill and item.

‘Legendary archer…. Not a marksman, but an expert archer. Besides, 1km-’

In Middle Earth, it was a distance that could never be reached by a bow.

What would make it possible? Leeha changed his boots with a nervous heart.

『Skill- Joint Fixation: Lower Body.』

『Joint Fixation: Lower Body』〉

Description: ‘Don’t move, don’t shake. Right, just like that…. I will be a tree. The rest will be taken care of by the mana of the earth’

Effect: Range increased by 30%

Mana: 300

Duration:Until dispelled(cannot be dispelled for 20 minutes after casting)

Cooldown : 30 minutes

“Oh?!”

And looking at the description of the skill that Leeha had opened for the first time, the problem he was thinking about was solved in an instant.

“Increased range! Kuhahaha! What is this?!”

It was a skill that was indespensable to the current Leeha. In can increase the effective range of the Black Bass from 2,000m to 2,600m!!

‘And ‘lower body’? Is there an ‘upper body’?’

If it’s according to the description, it was highly likely the knees and elbows.

Leeha didn’t know when another legendary item would be available, but the fact that there was at least one more item like this made him excited.

‘Keuuuu, as expected the heavens help those who help themselves! Although the penalty is a bit of a downer but…. it’s okay! Where could I find this! Even if the accuracy rate was affected, I thought the range would not change!’

In addition to being unable to move, once used, the skill cannot be canceled for 20 minutes.

In other word, from the moment he used the skill, Leeha had to stay there for 20 minutes without moving. It meant that the important thing about using this skill is not how much range it increased..

‘It means that I can maximize the value of the skill only if I could find a good spot. Hehe, if I use the snipe skill here.’

『Intermediate Snipe(Lv.9)』

Description: Uses mana to strengthen the gunpowder and protect the barrel.

Effect: Increase the maximum range for 19 minutes by 40%

Mana: 200

Cooldown : 1 hour

The snipe skill, which was about to be promoted to advanced rank, increased his range by 40%.

He had nothing more to worry about. Leeha checked the map he received from Bailephus and confirmed his sniping spot.

(To be continued…)
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 -Bailephus-nim! I’m ready!

-Alright. I will scatter my mana.

-Hyein-ssi, we will start now.

-I will be waiting for your signal.

As soon as Leeha arrived at the A-Spot he marked on the map, Leeha took out the Black Bass and picked up the magazine he had sorted separately in his bag.

Unlike other magazines, soft light leaked at the edge of the magazine.

‘I have one chance.’

After checking it, Leeha inserted the magazine into the Black Bass. Click.

Then, he attached the bar of the stabilizer on his waist to the Black Bass, click-!

“Pheeew……. If it’s this much…”

Normally, he would have done a shooting test for accuracy, but this time was different.

Even if the accuracy is somewhat sacrificed, his priority was to secure the range and sight. Most importantly, as long as there was an item to help with the accuracy, he had nothing to be afraid of.

Whether he was standing or in a lying down position, Leeha quietly murmurred from the spot overlooking Bailephus’ lair.

“Camouflage.”

Leeha’s figure, who had been standing on the fallen leaves just before, slowly disappeared. The golden mana that Bailephus released softly flowed over the lair range. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s brow twitched.

“This mana…… Bailephus.”

“Ho, ho, is it the mana of the dung fly? Kek, are we going now?”

Bluebeard’s comfortable sitting position turned somewhat rigid.

‘Nice, something has finally arrived!’

And Faust watched their reaction closely. Regardless of all the metal dragons moving to Bahamut’s lair, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh stopped taking a rest.


Bluebeard and Faust controlled the remaining chimeras and destroyed the borders of Minis. Even so, Faust’s body was itchy because he hadn’t been around much in this place, which they used as a hideout in the past few days.

‘The Minis city destruction quest doesn’t appear these days… I was wondering if there is its an event or something, were they going to catch Alexander’s dragon? No, they said they needed four dragons and had already caught them all. Besides, this would be the fifth head……. Isn’t that why they have been quiet lately?’

He concentrated on Middle Earth while saving logout time. So far, he was the only user who joined with the Demon King’s side and was with them in every move. Faust wanted to know more about the future activities of Bluebeard and secrets of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh than any other user, including Alexander, Leeha, and Biyemi. In his eyes, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Bluebeard seemed to no longer be interested in dragon hunting and were just waiting for something.

‘Whatever it is, it’s good news for me. The more I move with Bluebeard, the more undead materials I can collect…… Huhu.’

Naturally, he felt neither the need to divulge information nor tell anyone. It was because when he reached 8th in the ranking, he knew very well that growth from monopolizing information was the fastest way to grow in Middle Earth. As Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh stood up, Bluebeard spoke.

“Aren’t you ready anyway? I’m sure you only need four heads-”

“It’s different from that. Bailephus is one of the most troublesome for our chromatic dragon clan. If we get rid of him, who is a strong candidate for the next Bahamut, the queen’s movement will be much easier.”

“Hehe, Faust must have known that this would be a trap. Right?”

“Yes? Ah, yes. Count-nim.”

“Yes yes! Anyway, he’s very good at flattering himself. Haha.”

Boom-!

Bluebeard struck the white lizardia on the head with his staff. It didn’t hurt, but it was understandable that Faust was somewhat offended. Of course, for the sake of growth and quests, he just laughed along.

“It’s a trap, so what’s wrong? After all, that guy is alone. I can’t feel any mana nearby. Are you afraid even though all you have to do is slit his throat?.”

“Hmmm…. It’s not that I am afraid, but for some reason, my body aches. It’s good to be at home on such an ominous day. Why don’t you listen to this old man’s advice sometimes?”

Bluebeard naturally shrugged his shoulders. There was no way that the fragment of the demon king NPC would feel his body ache. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s brow narrowed.

“Shut up and follow me. Old man.”

“Isn’t this guy being too aggressive?”

“I will catch Bailephus by myself, follow me and don’t interefere, just help me with my work. That would be good for you too, old man.”

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Bluebeard were already having a conversation. Faust, who was next to them, also listened to their conversation. The act itself was known, but as a user, he did not understand the circumstances or reasons for the act.

“It’s good if you succeed, and it’s good if you don’t, because you could damage him to some extent, right?”


“That’s right. It’s a pity that I couldn’t settle everything with him before… but I am grateful that he showed up like this.”

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s voice was determined. The eyes of the red dragon, who had already made up his mind, burned with hostility. Faust, who was next to them, flinched, but Bluebeard just yawned at the sight.

“Ahh, risking your life to settle your rivalry…. It’s definitely exciting enough to wake me up! It would be nice if I could even place a bet-”

Swiiik-!

Two curved swords were drawn in an instant toward the grinning Bluebeard.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s bulging muscles moved as if it was going to tear apart, but the curved sword merely cut through air.

Bluebeard stood next to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh raising his staff.

“Don’t disrespect the holy battle between me and him, old man.”

“I get it, okay. Why are you so angry over a 5,000 year rivalry that is still unfinished?”

“Heung.”

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh snorted and withdrew his curved swords. The movement was so fast that Faust didn’t even have time to get up and move. The white-skinned Lizardia bowed his head at them once again.

“To be clear, I don’t want to fight that dung fly. It won’t do me any good if Bahamut gets up his chair too early.”

“I know. Just finish the task I asked you to do.”

“That’s what I wanted to ask about. Because I wanted to try it at least once.”

“……You’re such an unlucky old man.”

“What did you say?”

“Nothing, let’s go.”

Shwiik-! Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body disappeared. Bluebeard’s eyes flashed for a moment, then turned to Faust.

“Faust, you know what you have to do, don’t you?”

Shwoooo…


A quest window appeared in front of the necromancer’s eyes. After reading it quickly, Faust smiled and pressed the accept button.

“Yes, Count-nim.”

“Hide well, don’t miss the opportunity and run.”

“I know.”

 “Good. Let’s go.”

Bluebeard and Faust teleported near Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. A desolate wind blew through the hideout where they had just been.

*** 『You’re here.』

Bailephus, who had been sitting in his lair, opened his eyes. It was immediately clear who the existence that crossed the boundary he had created was.

-Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh has come.

-Yes, I see.

-Can you kill him immediately?

-I can’t because he’s in human form right now…. I don’t know where his heart is. The distance is also a bit far. I can only shoot Blaugrunn’s dragon heart bullet once, so I can’t fire recklessly.

It’s not something that can be gambled with. Hearing Leeha’s reply, Bailephus polymorphed into human form.

-Right. Then, which direction is it advantageous for you to shoot? I can’t find your mana either.

-Oh, from Bailephus-nim’s lair entrance in the south, that is to say, after meeting Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, I would appreciate it if you would move more than 500m to the northwest.

-Okay, I will try.

Shyuuk-!

Bailephus teleported near the intruder. The knight in golden armor faced the warrior with a red-shaved head.

As soon as he saw Bailephus, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh drew his sword. However, as usual, he didn’t rush immediately.

“Bailephus.”

“Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, what are you trying to do?…… What is the reason for persisting in evil that you would even abandon the chromatic clan!”

“Calm down, a strong reaction like that is unlike you, dung fly.”

“This bastard! Are you still trying to provoke me after taking four heads of our metal clan!”

On the contrary, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was calmer. Bailephus couldn’t help but feel strange about his attitude. Even in the midst of his rage, Bailephus tried spreading search mana around him, but he didn’t detect anything.

-Have you seen Bluebeard?

-I didn’t see him. What about his mana?

-I did not catch anything. But it would be reasonable to assume that he came.

-Hmm, okay. I’ll be careful for now.

“It’s time to put an end to our relationship that had lasted for over 4,000 years.”

“Okay, crazy red dragon! However, our relationship will be completed after I take back the four heads!”

“Kuhahaha, good, good! That’s what I want, Bailephus!”

As soon as Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s roar ended, a pale purple membrane and red border surrounded him. Leeha already knew what it was. It was a movement restriction magic that prevented those inside the barrier from leaving. And space lock magic that prevented outsiders from entering with space magic. It must be those two.

“Enchant weapon, strength!”

“Are you still relying on such crappy magic?! Haste, quick!”

Bailephus’ sword and shield shone, and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body shone.

They were buffs that clearly showed each other’s fighting style. 1 second after Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s thigh muscles wriggled, his body shot like an arrow and swung at Bailephus.

Boooom——-!

It was a speed that was invisible to those who saw it through the scope.

It was literally at a speed that made one wonder if it was teleportation, but Bailephus, who faced him, had already lifted his golden shield.

“Today is the day to break this tiresome chain of bad relationship, dung fly!”

“That’s what I want to say, you ruffian!”

Bailephus ran forward holding his shield. Of course, it was a small trick to cover up his own attack, and the moment Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh swung his curved swords to remove the shield, Bailephus put away his shield and stabbed the sword he was hiding behind it.

Swhiiiiiit-!

The sword pierced Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, but it was only an afterimage, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh torn side dissipated in the air.

“Heup! Flame strike!”

He didn’t miss that moment!

Bailipus swung back his shield and sprayed magic in all directions.

“Using flame magic against a red dragon! That just shows you’re a dung fly, flame strike!”

Hwarurururuk一!

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh appearance was caught in the magic rampage, which was a method of exploration rather than attack. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who appeared in the air to Bailephus’ right, also countered with magic.

The gold dragon’s 16 shots of flame strike spread out in all directions.

In response to that, the red dragon focused on one point and casted 22 shots.

The dragons chanted magic that was difficult for human mages even when they stood still, like they were picking up stones and throwing it.

(To be continued…)
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 “Ice Wall!”

Chuchuchuk- the steam in the air froze instantly and created a wall of ice. Its thickness and weight were incomparable to those used by Ram Hwajung!

Bang, bang, bang, bang-!

The flame strikes Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh casted hit the ice wall, scattering ice dust in the air.

“Hail!”

Bailephus cast another spell toward the ice wall that was on the verge of being destroyed. An innumerable amount of hail stones suddenly summoned behind the golden knight.

When the ice wall was completely destroyed, hailstones and fire collided with each other, generating fierce steam.

Chichichi—–!

The steam was extremely hot, but it was not hot enough to damage a polymorphed dragon.

Rather than the temperature, the lack of sight caused a brief lull.

Bailephus raised his voice in the silence.

“Summoning Tiamat will not benefit the chromatic dragons either! Did you not hear anything before you became an ancient, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh?! The queen of the chromatic dragons is more like a praying mantis! Don’t you know the reason why the chromatic dragons kept repeating the cycle of summoning and sealing Tiamat, unlike the metal dragons keeping Lord Bahamut?! If she comes out, the chromatic clan will also-”

“Shut that mouuuuuuuth!”

Swhiiiiiit-!

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh slashed through the steam and swung his sword toward Bailephus. The tremendous speed seemed to reverse the cause and effect to Leeha who looked through the scope.

It didn’t look like the steam split and he moved through the steam, but more like the steam split after he moved through it.

Bang, baaaaang——!

Bailephus hurriedly swung his sword and shield and managed to block two of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s curved swords.

‘That was close! I-If he was even a little late-’

Bailephus’ arm would have been cut off. Not only did the rising steam obstruct Leeha’s vision, but there was no way to aim between Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s and Bailephus’ transcendental speed.


A battle between two beings transformed into human form! Whenever there was a clash, the noise and waves produced by the dust clouds each time was sufficiently conveyed to the onlooker. However, one thing was certain.

‘It’s the same as what Blaugrunn, the bronze dragon, said while dying.’

Bailephus fell behind Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh in a 1:1 match. However, he didn’t get impatient. Slowly but surely. Leeha watched their battle with patience.

“How long are you going to run away, dung fly!? I’ll make you have nowhere else to flee on, fire pillar!”

“Oh!? Energy Shield!”

Bailephus’ feet trembled. A blue shield surrounded the golden knight, and a large-scale pillar of fire was even more terrifying!

Bang, bang, baaaang——!

As if crude oil deep underground caught fire and soared, the pillar of fire rose, tearing through the ground. It wasn’t like Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh to step back and let Bailephus put on a shield.

“Can you stop this?! Hellfire-”

The red dragon ran like the wind and cast the strongest non-target fire magic.

When the blue particles that seemed to swallow even the pillar of fire, deep blue enough to be mistaken for Ram Hwayeon’s casting, entered Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body, Bailephus finally made a decision.

Because it was too dangerous to be hit by that magic in human form.

“Wild Tornado!”

Huuu, hu-hwuiiiii—–!

The gold dragon hurriedly cast a wild gust of wind. When the wild gust of wind approached the location of the soaring fire, the lights of fire began to merge into one.

“Cough, this damn bastard-”

It wasn’t just to block the fire dragon’s strongest fire magic. The gold dragon did not block the casting of the Hellfire but simply used magic to cover the red dragon’s sight.

In the gap where Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh squinted his eyes, the figure of the golden knight had already disappeared.

『Kaaaaa!』

A majestic gold dragon roared and flew up. Everyone who watched and experienced the war knew what the whirlwind of mana gathering in front of the gold dragon meant. A super-heated breath of white flames was directed at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.


“Kuwaa, damned dung fly!”

Will he use another Hellfire against the gold dragon’s white flame breath?

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh made a choice. Even in his dragon form, Bailephus’ breath would reach Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh first if he used the strongest fire magic, which required casting time.

Ultimately, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh canceled casting Hellfire.

However, because of the Fire Pillar magic he used, he did not have anywhere to escape.

Should he take on the breath or throw himself into the pillar of fire?

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s choice was natural.

Taat-!

Bailephus didn’t feel sorry for Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who flung himself toward the pillar of fire in order to avoid the breath.

He expected from the start that the red dragon, with his quick movement, would avoid the breath.

『Enchant Fire! Ignition Burst!』

This was because it was the goal of the gold dragon. A pillar of fire combined with a tornado was enchanted and emitted more powerful heat. The red flame, which was already over 1,200 degrees Celsius, turned yellow beyond orange.

It was different from the orange or yellow caused by incomplete combustion.

The color of the flames, where complete combustion took place, proved that the flames were over 5,000 degrees Celsius.

And a small bluish-white mass flew toward the whirlwind of flames of over 5,000 degrees Celsius.

A color different from the dark blue color of the outer flame of a candle, a clear, vivid, dazzling blue light shimmered and burned ominously.

The heat that was stronger than the gold dragon’s breath of over 10,000 degrees Celsius blew out.

Like Hellfire, the Ignition Burst, the most powerful ranged flame magic that no user had been seen using, collided with the whirlwind of flame.

It was not the noise that the sudden collision of huge energies created.

The shimmering waves of energy were felt by Leeha as well.


The heat reached far beyond 1km, and the compressive energy stronger than the head shook Leeha’s body violently.

‘Hot is hot, but what is this-’

The powerful force and the feeling that the surrounding air was being sucked in in an instant dragged Leeha’s body little by little.

‘Keeuup, the camouflage would be undone if I move, I have to hold on…… Kuwwaaaaa-!’

Was this how it felt when playing in a tug-of -war between 50 and 1? But Leeha persevered.

With only the thought of catching Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, his legs trembled as if they were about to explode, but he managed to stop the movement of 30cm.

He barely managed to endure within the range where the camouflage did not come off, but… he wasn’t safe yet.

A huge wave of energy entered Leeha’s sight beyond the scope.

Kwa, kwa, kwakwakwa- kwakwakwakwa

When the condensation of energy was over, the real explosion began. The accumulated energy was released to the surroundings along with the flame aura.

‘This sight- ha-!’ A huge mushroom-shaped cloud rose about the spot where Bailephus and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh stood.

“Cough,…… kehek, phtew.”

Leeha checked his condition after the explosion.

Dark red view covered more than 60% of his sight. It could be said that he did not die due to his heavenly luck.

However, considering the distance between the explosion point and his current spot, it would not be an exaggeration to say that it was more powerful than a missile explosion in modern warfare.

Of course, the damage Leeha received was so severe because no defensive magic could be used. It was because mana flow should not be detected by the enemy at all.

“Barely…… I did not move. Kek.”

The camouflage was not released. A force ten times stronger than when sucking him in pushed him away, but he did not get pushed back. Of course, the reason was because of a skill.

He used the ‘Joint Fixation: Lower Body’ skill right before he was about to get swept by the explosion.

Forcibly restricting movement?

Would he be able to resist not only the will but also the opponent’s skill? Leeha tried to gamble using the skill and his gamble succeeded.

A colorless skill with no conspicuous color, like the force barrier firmly fixed Leeha’s body to the ground.

‘I really turned into a tree. Tsk, it isn’t a very pleasant skill…’

Leeha looked down at his lower body.

The vines of mana protruding from the boots were rooted in the earth, covering Leeha’s hamstrings, heels, step-ins, and thighs.

Leeha felt happy, but also sad because it was similar to the ‘forced paraplegia’ he was familiar with. Of course, it wasn’t the time to worry about that.

Leeha: Bailephus-nim?!

Bailephus: If you’re ready, open fire, Ha Leeha!

Leeha listened to Bailephus’ rushed voice and looked at the explosion site.

Smoke enveloped the surroundings with a thick cotton-like texture. He could not see anything aside from the two smoke points rising in the sky.

‘Mana Clairvoyance!’

However, even with mana clairvoyance, the only thing that caught Leeha’s eyes was a dragon-shaped lump of mana.

In addition to Bailephus’ reaction, the quest clear notification window did not appear.

In other words, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was not dead either.

Besides, what did it mean when the wind was currently turbulent?

It meant the bastard was alive. And he was not visible with Leeha’s skill.

‘Damn it, it’s easy to say, appear right now! What can I do when I don’t see anything? It means that mana clairvoyance isn’t working at the moment.’

Fortunately, both dragons cleared the smoke. Through the smoke that gradually faded, Bailephus’ figure came in.

Even the silhouette of four wings was visible through the thin smoke.

『Kyaaaaaa—-!』

『Kaa, Kaah一!』

The two dragons roared and started shooting magic again.

With a flap from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s wings, flame strikes came out at once, but the magic disappeared as if it was erased by an eraser.

Bailephus’ dispel was as adroit as Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh fire magic.

The ground battle turned into air battles, and humans became dragons. It was only natural that the battle would become more intense.

『Sun Burst!』

『Ice Cloud!』

Blocking the explosive flames containing sunlight magic blocked by sunlight as cloud as ice, and Kuzguna-ka.

Breaking through the explosion caused by the clash of opposite attributes, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh charge toward Bailephus.

『I will rip your wings off today!』

『Nonsense! This is a great opportunity to wake up!』

Kyaaaaaa—–

The two dragons roared and started physical attacks.

Their claws, each wrapped in gold and silver energy, were sharper than any other weapon.

Two dragons were entangled in the sky at the corner of the road where the gold dragon Bailephus’ lair was.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘He’s fast. He has incredible speed.’

The two dragons entangled in the air swinging their claws and using magic on each other.

A tail-whip, which seemed to deal no damage to them, would be a deadly attack if a human received it.

The battle in which ancient-class dragons exerted all their strength was truly beyond imagination.

‘Did he hold back his strength against Fibiel during the national war?… That’s crazy…’

It wasn’t apparent because he used breath, but with how he used his magic now, it was clear the gold dragon held back his strength against humans.

Bailephus: Ha-Ha Leeha-! Are you ready?

Leeha: m moPlease mark where the dragon heart is! I know it’s in the chest area you mentioned, but I need to be certain- even my mana clairvoyance could not detect his dragon heart!

Bailephus: Keuk, I got it. Get ready quickly!

Leeha: And the distance- you have to hold the distance! Please lure him to the point I told you to!

Bailephus: That’s- not easy! I’ll try my best, so hurry up when you get the chance-

Bailephus’ whisper was cut off. On Leeha’s scope, the gold dragon roared after getting scratched by the red dragon.

First of all, he had t delay to lure Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh to the point Leeha mentioned. And Bailephus was pushed by Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, so he was hit twice while defending.

Additionally, after a big explosion, his energy rapidly declined.

And now, Bailephus was struggling. It was not unreasonable for Bailephus to grind his teeth at Leeha after getting hit once, twice, thrice, and four times in a row.

Regardless of his intentions, if he gets pushed back in battle, the result of course would be that he would have to leave the battlefield.

‘At first, I wanted him to be lured in the northwest direction…. But after they turned into dragons, they completely changed direction. They are now going southeast’

It wasn’t just because Bailephus was getting pushed back.

Even for the sake of stability, Leeha could not take a long time.

“huuuu…”


Click-!

After loading one shot while pulling the bolt, Leeha controlled his breathing while he held the Black Bass connected to the stabilizer.

Through the scope, he could see the red dragon flying.

Without thinking about his own body, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh hit even harder. The expression of a warrior with a single-minded attitude fit perfectly.

‘They’re barely in the 1.7km mark- and they’re getting further away again. They’re now at 1.9- no they are about to enter 2km.’

It meant that they are about to enter the maximum range of a regular Black Bass.

Bailephus barely held on, and was having a hard time.

In the battle of the dragons flying at high speed, they could move 100m in an instant even if they only moved once or twice.

‘They’re using so much magic that I don’t have to worry about wind direction and wind speed . It’s like a shrimp joining in a whale’s fight.’

Leeha calmed down by making fun of himself.

His opportunities were more limited than any sniping he ever did.

If he made even one mistake, the red dragon would get to him and tear his body apart in an instant.

Of course, all his quests would fail, and even Bailephus might die after Leeha died.

‘Hmm, then, will Alexander’s job change from Dragon Knight to Dragoon? Kek, if it wasn’t for the penalty, wouldn’t it be fun to see……?’

He needed to think about those things in order to remove the tension and relax. He relaxed his back, took a big breath again, then small breath, small breath….

Determined to slow down his heart beat and limit his blood flow, Leeha looked into the scope.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s magic attack and charge forced Bailephus to create a shield and was barely able to retreat. Each time their six wings flapped in the sky, their distance got farther and farther away.

But there was no need to hurry.

‘Current wind direction southeast……. At 1.3km, the wind direction changes to south-southeast, and the wind speed is not fast at 4m/s. Thanks to the explosion earlier, the atmosphere had calmed down. The distance 2,280m-”

Gulp.


In the past, a curved line would have been necessary to exceed the effective range, but not now.

‘-it’s within the effective range. Checking the target.’

There was a diagonal line on the red dragon’s chest. The part where blood flowed was the mark made by Bailephus. The dragon heart was there.

‘Distance adjustment, 2,310m, 2,319m- Snipe, calm Mind.’

Click.

A bullet flying at 830m per second was shot out of the Black Bass.

After 1, 2, 2.3, 2.5, and 2.8 seconds.

The red dragon’s body shook unsteadily.

He was about to fall, but he straightened up right away.

He didn’t die. Because the dragon heart did not get hit.

Blood flowed from the red dragon’s neck.

Like his attribute of handling flames, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s burning eyes met Leeha’s eyes in the scope.

『Ha——– Lee——— Ha———!!!!!』

The red dragon’s roar was heard by Leeha, who was 2.3km away

『You bastard, when you’re having a one-on-one fight with me!』

Bailephus didn’t miss the opportunity. The red dragon, who instantly found Leeha’s location 2.3km away and became enraged, had to deal with the gold dragon’s tackle.

Bailephus bit Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh with force to block, but the red dragon’s resistance was also formidable. His four wings made a complicated movement, and the gold dragon dropped him with a movement that could not be followed.

『I expected something from the time you dung fly scattered your mana! But- you only hid a human in order to catch me—!』

『Flame strike!』

『Flame strike!』


Bailephus used magic at the gliding Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, but the red dragon turned around and immediately counterattacked.

Flame strikes collided in the air and spewed acrid smoke.

『With your cheeky magic, with that impudent human- How dare you try to stop me from summoning the queen! You are truly foolish, you dung fly!』

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh turned and flew before the smoke disappeared. Bailephus could tell the direction Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was flying to.

『S-Stop! Where are you going!』

『Kuhahaha! I can get rid of that bastard in no time anyway! Should there be a variable in our long cherished wish?! Hmmmmm-!』

Bailephus knew Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh did not feel Leeha’s mana, but it didn’t matter. He only needed to burn everything in his path. In front of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s chest, ;;a mana whirlwind began to gather.

A high-temperature flame breath that was not any weaker than the gold dragon’s will be sprayed over the land that he flew on.

『I won’t let you, reverse gravity』

Jjeong-!

Bailephus’ gravity reversal magic was used, but it did not stop Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh from flying. Because it was also a magic that was related to space.

The space was shocked and shook, but that was all.

『Wipe your chest and wait, dung fly! I will take care of Ha Leeha and get rid of him immediately!』

Paaaa…

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh has already been hit thrice by Leeha.

It meant that he experienced it enough times for a dragon to be surprised by the overwhelming destructive power that did not diminish even at that range, and that it was time to block Leeha’s attack. After blowing the breath forward, it was targeted to the ground. Even if Leeha shot him again, the bullet would touch the breath and melt before getting hit.

It was an attempt to get rid of the shot.

『Eeek- Stay here, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh!』

『Hahat, this is fun too, dung fly! It’s like a game of tag between us!』

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh laughed at Bailephus who was following him, and then sped up again expecting Leeha to shoot again shwaaaa— ah__________|

『Can you shoot this as well, Ha Leeha! I know that you too will become an enemy of the queen!』

The red dragon flew fast while spinning its body.

There was no way to stop it, who was flying while turning its body around like a fighter jet in order to make its chest untargetable, and faster than Bailephus in a straight flight, perfectly protecting his weakness.

It was a move that made the gold dragon’s magic ineffective, and made it impossible for the Black Bass to do anything.

With just one clash, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had already prepared a way to compensate for all his weaknesses.

It was a movement that could never be hit with a single-shot Black Bass, unless he had an anti-aircraft rifle or vulcan method of netting.

『Where are youuuuuuuuu!』

When the red dragon stopped rolling, he immediately spewed out his breath, and spewed forward first, then targeted the flames toward the ground.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s distance from Leeha shrunk to less than 1km before he knew it.

900m, 800m, 700m”••••.

『Stop! Stop- Keuk-!』

Paak-!

Bailephus’ body, who was flying, collided with an invisible wall. It was proof that they had come to the edge of the anti-movement barrier that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had laid out.

『Kuhhahaha, you bastard just stop there and wait! I will play with you soon!』

『Bastaaaard, Kuzgunaaaaaaak’sh!』

Bailephus started using mana to release the barrier but that would take some time.

Moreover, it was impossible to catch up with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who was flying at high speed after that, and the gold dragon also roughly guessed Leeha’s location, so he had no choice but to stare at the red dragon flying.

The distance between Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Leeha became 600m, 500m, 400m… And when it approached 300m, the rolling red dragon breathed again.

『I will kill you this time! On behalf of the chromatic dragon clan, on behalf of the queen’s will-』

Heeeup……!

As soon as he was about to spit out the breath, he heard a crack in the huge glass world Crack- Craaack-!

『Hmm?』

Paaaaaat—–!

And from that point on the ground, a purple light exploded.

『Space movement? My barrier-』

In the place where the light disappeared, there was a human magician holding a long staff.

He started to cast magic, but it looked absurd to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

『You’re clever! However, you cannot stop my breath! How can a mere human magician block a dragon’s breath! Even that dung fly cannot stop by breath-』

“What kind of dragon has such a long tongue? I won’t block your breath! Instead, I will stop you from releasing your breath!”

Shwaaaaa!

What broke Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s triumphant smile was the appearance of another person next to the human magician.

『-What-』

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh recognized him.

Leeha lifted the camouflage and supported the Black Bass.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was taken aback when he saw Leeha, who did not run away, but appeared confidently and held the rifle.

It was a very brief moment, not even a second!

However, that was enough.

“Hyein-shiiiii—–!”

It took a moment before Sage Hyein’s magic was completed.

“Complete halt!”

(To be continued…)
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 Jjujung–!

As if a god descended, a purple pillar of light wrapped around Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body.

The reason Leeha needed Sage Hyein was not simply to penetrate the space.

『W-wh-what is this?

– movement stop? You human- You humans- I-』

It was to fix the ‘target’ perfectly and securely.

It is a complete stop magic that was also eaten by the gold dragon who was good at magic. Even more so, this time it was more effective than the time when it was used on Bailephus.

It couldn’t completely bind the dragon’s spirit, but it was enough to keep the body bound for more than 10 seconds.

The red dragon’s body, which had narrowed the distance of 2km in an instant using acrobatics, froze in the air.

Now, it was no longer possible to ascend, descend, or roll. And the distance between the red dragon and Leeha was only 100m.

It was a position where they could see each other’s expressions.

“Did you ask if I could hit you earlier? You red lizard!”

Click-!

Leeha quickly pulled the bolt.

A soft light from the magazine rose up the barrel of the Black Bass.

The dragon heart bullet was positioned to come out as the second bullet from the start.

It was a strategy similar to the one he used to deal with Bailephus.

After attracting the red dragon with the first bullet, he called Sage Hyein in order to tie down the bastard’s body.

『This bastard- no matter what you do, the queen’s-』

“Shut up.”


After creating such a thorough and certain situation to tear out the dragon heart!

“This is Blaugrunn’s revenge.”

Baaaaaaang-

The bronze dragon’s small bullet made from the dragon heart covered a short distance of less than 100m in an instant.

The dragon heart bullet that pierced the Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh breast scales, which Bailephus marked, collided with the red dragon’s dragon heart.

『———————-』

It wasn’t blood that flowed from the punctured chest of the red dragon. Instead of red blood, white light began to leak through the hole.

『You have completed the quest ‘Revenge of the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn’.』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

“Uwaaaaaa!?”

Shaaaaa!

The white light radiating from Leeha’s body did not stop.

The quest notification and level up notifications made babam babam sounds in between-! Even the sound effect of the achievement notification shook Leeha’s head.

“Haha, to grow stronger like this…… it can’t be helped that I would catch up with everyone.”

Collaborating with an ancient dragon to catch another ancient dragon……

Hyein smiled slightly at Leeha’s flustered face.

White light radiated from his body.

It meant that just one comple halt gave him, a semi-ranker, enough experience to raise his level.


“Still, I’m glad the result is good.”

Hyein swept his chest and checked his level. He had also tested with the gold dragon several times to break Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh space lock magic.

They held a lot of operational meetings, including Baileipus, since the following included Hyein in this operation.

They couldn’t find the final sniping spot, but they worked hard to adapt to wherever they went, and this was the result.

“How many levels will he get- huh?”

After he managed to get rid of the level up light effect, Leeha looked and saw new people.

“Ha Leeha-ssi, who are those people-” Hyein asked with a smile, but Leeha couldn’t afford to do the same.

He saw an old man dressed in black and a white lizardia approaching from a distance.

“B-Blue-Bluebeard! A fragment of the demon king and the ranker Faust!”

Click-!

Leeha immediately loaded the bolt and fired.

A loud gunshot rang out, but failed to hit the target. Bluebeard and Faust moved at a breakneck speed, closing the distance.

They were flying faster than Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was on the ground! ‘Can Faust do that because of Bluebeard’s power?’

Leeha: Bailephus!

Bailephus: I know! Hold on a little! Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s dragon heart hasn’t completely destroyed, so his magic still-

It was impossible for Bailephus to not notice their black mana, but he couldn’t move immediately as he was still disarming the barrier. Leeha couldn’t hear the gold dragon’s words until the end.

Because Bluebeard, who was approaching, suddenly leaped towards Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

‘Damn it!’

Click, baaaaang——-!

Leeha fired another shot, but it brushed past Bluebeard’s collar. Even using the stabilizer and joint locking skill, with his accuracy, range, change of aiming point, etc, all raised, that was the limit.


“Stop it, Bluebeard!”

“The young man that time with Crolang? Heh, well, if it wasn’t for the three musketeers, there’s no way the attack could have been successful at that distance.”

Only then did Bluebeard look down at Leeha.

It meant that he wasn’t even looking at the one who attacked him. Of course, he only checked Leeha’s level for a short time, but he didn’t come close and attack.

Although he still floated in the air with the power of mana, Bluebeard approached the limp red dragon and brandished his staff.

Skeuk-! With a shout, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s neck was cut.

“W-what?”

“Teamkill?”

Leeha and Hyein was also shocked.

Bluebeard casually stuffed Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s head into his suit pocket. Like a dimensional pocket, the red dragon’s head was sucked into it.

“Now, that is enough Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. I did what you asked.”

『That—–….follow me–』

“Tsk tsk, didn’t I say you have to listen to this old man from the beginning. Well, anyway, you guys don’t worry about the queen and get some rest.”

『……-』

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who slowly fell down to the floor and collapsed, could no longer be called a dragon.

His dragon heart was broken, his mana leaked out, and his head was missing.

The middle of his long neck had been severed, leaving only a short neck unsuitable for its size.

Literally, only the dead body, the body that was about to go into eternal rest, remained.

Looking at the red dragon, who couldn’t speak because his dragon heart couldn’t be maintained, Bluebeard seemed to have thought of something, ddak-! He snapped his finger.

“oops, you can’t even rest. In exchange for doing you a favor, you agree for your body to be of use. right?”

『-!?! What- 一』

“What kind of foolishness, shouldn’t I be paid my wage? Anyway, it’s been a lot of trouble for over 5,000 years. Please do your best for me in the future.”

A sinister smile appeared in Bluebeard’s face.

“Faust!”

“Yes, Count-nim!”

“Get this.”

“Understood.”

At that time, the 8th ranked necromance, Faust, stepped forward. Black grains entered the white lizardia’s body. Both Leeha and Hyein knew that he was using necromancy skills. And that it had to be stopped.

“I won’t let you!”

Click-!

Leeha immediately loaded the bolt. He was at most 150m away from Faust, it was a distance that Leeha could hit even with his eyes close.

Click- Baanng—–!

But the gunshot was strange. The Black Bass’ bullet, which bounced faster than sound, did not reach Faust.

“Aigoo, my shoulder……. Oh no, the handle of my cane is dented, isn’t it? How are you going to pay for this, young man?”

It was because Bluebeard, standing in front of Faust, raised his staff and deflected Leeha’s bullet.

Bluebeard frowned at the silver handle of the staff, but even that seemed terrifying to Leeha.

How should he deal with that? There was also a fortunate point for Leeha. It was that the being that could deal with him had just lifted Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh barrier and was on his way.

『Le, you bastaaaard! Are you really going to disturb a dragon’s rest! No matter how much Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh is my nemesis! Disrupting a dragon’s rest is unforgivable as a dragon!』

“Aiguu, your wrinkles won’t go away if you wear a frown at that age, my dung fly friend.”

『Shut up! Flame strike!』 “

“Tsk tsk, something that doesn’t work on red doesn’t -”

“Me too!”

Click-! Leeha couldn’t just sit still and watch.

Fifteen flame strikes fired from Bailephus and shot toward Bluebeard, and Leeha pulled the trigger on Black Bass just in time for the attack.

It took less than 0.2seconds for a bullet travelling at 830m per second to cross 150m.

Ba—-Baaaang——!

‘He couldn’t avoid it! Right!’

Leeha’s bullet apparently hit first. He could clearly see Bluebeard’s short body staggering. Moreover, a pouring rain of fire followed.

He wasn’t sure if he didn’t dodge or if he was hit, but it was certain that the attack had reached him anyway.

Pyuuuu…

In the aftermath of the attack, even when the smoke was pouring out, Bailephus did not stop.

『Give Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s head, le!』

Shiiik, the gold dragon’s huge body launched a physical charge and the smoke was scattered.

The enchantment that covered his claws scratched where Bluebeard was. Even through the smoke, his silhouette was clearly visible.

‘Tsk-’

Baaaang—!

However, all it did was a loud reverbation, like hitting aluminum.

“Cough, cough This, this! Are you like this because you grew old together? What are you doing, Bailephus!”

『What are you going to do with it! How can you disturb his rest!』

“What a sad thing to say about disturbing rest. I’ve decided to grant him one last favor. Is it really that big of a deal to get paid for my hard work?”

Bluebeard shrugged his shoulders.

The mana coming out of the cane created a translucent veil. It was something that even the gold dragon couldn’t penetrate, and of course, Faust, who actively used his skills, stood behind it.

“Faust! Faust! Aren’t you a user? What are you doing! What are you doing cooperating with the demon king army?!”

Leeha looked at him and shouted, but Faust only glanced at Leeha and did not responsd.

No, it wasn’t that he didn’t answer at all.

The pure white lizard smiled while looking down, and a skill was cast the moment the lizard’s mouth opened.

That alone was enough to understand Leeha’s intention.

『How come you are like this? Don’t you know?』

“Resurrection catacombs!”

When Faust used his skill, the ground where Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh body laid down was stained black.

And after a while, the texture of the land changed like a swamp and began to swallow the red dragon.

Bailephus’ pupil dilated.

『Resurrection Catacombs! Necromancer! Dispel!』

“Keuk, I’m in front, dispel-.”

Baaaang———! Flash.

“-never-”

Baaaaaang—–! Bam-

Flash.

“- work. Is it that hard to say? Really, isn’t the young man over there supposed to be? What are you attacking me like that?”

Baaaaaang——-! Click

Flash.

Leeha didn’t respond to that and continued to shoot.

(To be continued…)
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 The dragon heart bullets in the magazines then changed the magazines and fired five more shots in a row, but Bluebeard’s shield was not broken. One good thing about it is that his shield blinked every time a bullet hit. And Bluebeard was paying close attention to that.

‘Damn it, there’s definitely a reaction but my attack power is weak. The source of the shield was definitely the cane. If I hit the cane one more time…’

Leeha knew exactly where and what to attack.

Bluebeard moved the handle of his cane while pretending to complain to Bailephus and Leeha.

Neither Hyein nor the gold dragon was able to see it but the eyes of a sniper would never miss it.

‘One more time!’

And the magazine changed once more.

The sound of a bullet being loaded as the bolt was pulled was heard, click-! Hearing the sound, Bluebeard’s expression hardened little by little.

“I’m warning you, I won’t stand still if you attack me one more time. I was going to let you off the hook since you’re a friend of ‘that’ young man, but you’re getting too wild.”

Bluebeard shouted at Leeha. And Leeha?

“Fuck you.”

Baaaaang——–!

He pulled the trigger without hesitation. C-c-crack-! For the first time, Bluebeard’s shield cracked.

“……This bastard-”

『Do you think you can ignore me and leave!』

Bluebeard tried to clear the shield and run, but he was blocked by Bailephus.

“Get out of the way, dung fly.”

 『Ground Chain!』

Shusuk! Bluebeard’s jump was faster than Bailephus’ casting.

However, as if he had no interest in the magic, Bluebeard passed Bailephus in an instant and went after Leeha.


The fragment of the demon king lightly raised his cane with a distorted handle.

However, his momentum was not normal.

‘Damn it!’

Leeha had seen it before. Some time ago, he saw the scene where he pierced the chests of Czar guild members with that invisible cane.

If Leeha got stabbed with that, he would never survive.

“Force-”

“Be-be careful!”

He had no time to shout force barrier! However, it was fortunate for Leeha that there was another person who was warier of Bluebeard’s speed than him.

“Mass Blink!”

Shupa—-!

Bluebeard’s cane stabbed the air. Light purple mana flew from the place where Leeha and Hyein were standing before.

“Haa, are you okay?”

“T-thank you.”

Bluebeard saw Hyein and Leeha, who were relocated for more than 50m in an instant, and licked his lips.

“jjim…… still, it’s better to be a gold dung fly than a red maniac.”

Hyein got away with using an instant skill, but there was a reason why Bluebeard was late in the first place.

『Do you see me as an idiot, fragment of the demon king!』

The gold dragon was not a fool. The magic used toward the fragment of the demon king who had already dodged several times was not ordinary magic.

Every time Bluebeard lifted his leg like a kick, a sticky chain stretched from his ankles as if connected to the ground.

Since the magic that slowed his movement speed was already applied, Hyein was able to respond to Bluebeard’s attack.


Of course, Bluebeard would not get angry or shout just because he missed Leeha. He just put on a light expression of regret for missing his toy.

“Cough……. So annoying. Faust!”

By the time he summoned his subordinate, the necromancer, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s corpse had already been absorbed to the ground.

“It’s almost done-”

『No way! It can’t be like that. Heeup.』

At that point where only the red scales were barely visible, Bailephus hurriedly gathered mana.

“This, how dare you gold dung fly!”

Looking at the figure, Bluebeard shook again-!

At first, Bluebeard, who was protecting Faust, passed Bailephus and approached Leeha.

In other words, what if Bailephus faced Faust? Bluebeard naturally caught the back of the gold better!

『This-』

Bailephus could not break his concentration on Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Faust, even if he felt that Bluebeard approached him from behind.

At this rate, the gold dragon’s throat would be cut by Bluebeard.

How would the battle flow? What will Bluebeard do next?

That was what Leeha had predicted.

“I knew it!”

Baaaaang—–!

Leeha shot again. He wasn’t even aiming at Bluebeard from the start.

Like the pattern he had shown, Leeha had been thinking hard about the probability of Bluebeard appearing ‘behind’ Bailephus!

Baaaaang-!


Bluebeard appeared behind Bailephus’ neck and hurriedly swung his cane at Leeha’s bullet.

“You damn brat-”

“Ground ball in front of the first base, out!”

One more time, click-! Baaaaang — baang—-!

Bluebeard continued to hit the 830m/s bullets like baseball balls. Leeha was neither surprised nor was stopped by the ridiculous response. After his attack on Bailephus got stopped, Bluebeard turned back toward Leeha as soon as he landed on the ground.

Bluebeard was determined to kill the troublesome interrupter this time, however, his servant behind him did not allow it.

“C-count-nim!”

“Hmm?”

Shyaaaaa……I

An object with a weak light was about to escape from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body which was about to be absorbed into the ground and showed only a few scales. Bluebeard’s pupils widened for the first time.

“Eeeeek 一”

And Leeha understood what it was and why Bluebeard was flustered.

‘Dragon heart……”

It was a very weak light, so Leeha couldn’t see better.

It was definitely Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s dragon heart that cracked like a window that had been shattered by Blaugrunn’s dragon heart bullet.

Ignoring Bluebeard’s attack, Bailephus tried to take out his dragon heart in conjunction with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body.

Bluebeard immediately turned and flew away from Leeha, but Bailephus had already finished concentrating.

『It’s over, le.』

Sureureureuk, at the same time, the corpse of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was completely absorbed and disappeared.

The dragon heart, which emerged from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body, went into Bailephus’ arms in the form that even the weak light remaining was gone.

****

The most taken aback was Faust.

Did the golf dragon take out the dead dragon’s heart with his unique skill? There was no way a single user could stop something that they didn’t even know about in the first place.

“So……I am so sorry, Count-nim! H-how can I stop this-”

Seeing the white lizardia flustered, Leeha and Hyein were about to catch on.

That he had received some kind of quest from Bluebeard.

And the contents of the quest must have been to absorb the corpse of the red dragon that possessed the dragon heart.

Both of them could only imagine how to use it and what they could do with it, but they didn’t know the exact details, but there was one sure thing.

Taking out Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s dragon heart made Bluebeard very angry

Leeha hadn’t seen him many times, but he’s always been playful… Even when Crolang died, he only clapped and laughed leisurely. But he-’

He made a face like that.

Not only the corners of his eyes but even his Bluebeard were contorted as if they were about to rise toward the sky.

“……This is not funny. All three of you…… are not funny.”

Hwaaaak-!

As soon as Bluebeard’s expression hardened, black energy rise like smoke behind him.

“Keuk, what is that…”

“That…… is dangerous. Rather than wait for it to finish we have to retreat-”

Even Leeha, who was aiming the Black Bass, lowered the muzzle, and Hyein, who was next to him, felt the pressure that made him take three or more steps back.

『Go away, le!』

“Huh, go away? Me? Don’t joke, dung fly. If I don’t take out your heart right now, I won’t feel at ease.”

The handle of his cane became even more bent as Leeha fired bullets several times.

Le grabbed the handle and lifted his cane, jjuuuuung ……! A jet-black blade protruded from the end of the cane that seemed to eat up space.

A line of darkness that seemed to suck in all light seemed to appear from the wand.

A line of black mana that couldn’t be looked at properly swayed unsteadily.

“Tsk…… nothing really works today. I wasn’t supposed to move.”

Listening to Bluebeard’s irritated voice, Leeha was sure that his guess was correct and that he had done a little bit of damage to the terrifying Bluebeard.

‘My attack broke the cane. That unknown attack skill must have prevented me from preventing power.’

Of course, it was still a problem that he couldn’t catch up with Bluebeard’s tremendous movement, aside from the offensive skill that he could not see before, it was still a pleasant thing to Leeha.

It’s like giving a guy who always get beaten up a shot at last.

“I will need to kill all of you to make me feel better-”

『I have already called the lord.』

“……Don’t make me laugh. I did not feel your mana getting sprayed.”

Bailephus interrupted Bluebeard. The advancing step of the fragment of the demon king stopped.

『If it’s a lie, you can check it. The lord will come in a little while. This time, lord Bahamut and I will annihilate you together.』

Bailephus snorted and lifted his neck.

His one-on-one fight with Bluebeard already made his body bruised, but his spirit did not shake.

A grinning sound spread from Bluebeard’s mouth.

The fragment of the demon king’s lips twitched his lips looked like they would attack at any moment in anger, but the name of Lord Bahamut was much heavier than expected.

“Pheeeeew……. Good. It’s a relief that we achieved half of the results. Should I say that I’m glad that I have achieved half of the result we wanted? Let’s retreat, Faust!”

“We are going back, Count-nim?”

“Because I can’t meet that old man yet.”

Bluebeard turned around as if going back on a walk.

Even though he turned his back on Bailephus, Leeha, and Hyein, she is acting as if he didn’t even need to be nervouse.

『Do you think I will just let you go, le!』

“What can you do to stop me?”

Bailephus was furious when he saw that, but that was all. Bluebeard was sure he wouldn’t be attacked first.

‘Damn it, did he really call lord Bahamut? If it were true, I would have tied his feet!’

Leeha and Hyein were not sure about that.

What if the gold dragon’s words were a bluff? What if they attacked for no reason and then Bluebeard struck again?

Leeha and Hyein could not move unless Bailephus moved first.

The good news is that it is impossible for Bluebeard to attack first. Because there was a possibility the gold dragon’s inaction was a ‘trap to lure’ him.

In the end, in the standoff, where neither could touch the other, Bluebeard approached Faust and tapped the ground with his staff.

(To be continued…)
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 “Now! We will have a party next time, dung fly! We’re going to get the pretty girl out, so come without the old man!”

『 That’s just drivel. Can you summon Tiamat, the queen of the chromatic clan? Even our metal clan don’t know how-』

“Aah, you’re noisy. Won’t you know if you see? Huhut, let’s go, Faust.”

“Yes, Count-aak! -nim.”

Ttak-!

Bluebeard whirled his cane and struck Faust on the head with an exaggerated sound.

Just when Faust was seen stroking his head for a moment, the two had already disappeared.

『Can he really summon Tiamat…?』

Looking at the place they disappeared from, Bailephus murmured quietly.

They had caught Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and retrieved his dragon heart, but he was uneasy. This was because he realized that this was only the ‘beginning’.

“It’s over now…… right?”

Leeha strained his eyes and looked around.

『I at least know that he won’t come back here as long as we use Lord Bahamut’s name.』

Even Bailephus could not detect their mana. And he believed that because he mentioned Bahamut’s name, they would not return.

“Cough, I wish I could see something…”

Bluebeard was as good as the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh at hiding his mana. Leeha could not find Bluebeard’s mana earlier even with ‘Mana Clairvoyance’.

After staring at the sky for a while, the gold dragon turned its huge body towards Leeha and Hyein.

Hyein flinched for a moment, but Bailephus casually lowered his head toward the two.

The gold dragon’s long neck descended as if to touch the ground.

It was a dragon’s best manner to anyone, which Blaugrunn once showed to Leeha.


『Thank you, Ha Leeha. And magician who handles space.』

“D-don’t mention it. Thank you for including me in this plan, gold dragon.”

Unlike Leeha, who was calm, Hyein hurriedly lowered his head toward the gold dragon. Seeing that, Bailephus smiled lightly.

『At least in terms of space magic, you are stronger than an adult dragon. Maybe even stronger than ancient-class of our metal dragon clan. However, don’t go around bragging about using Complete Halt on Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. The chromatic dragon clan will be looking out for you.』

“A feat like that- no, yes. I will be careful. Thank you, gold dragon.”

Listening to his words, Leeha was able to roughly guess what achievements he had.

An achievement of that kind, where the intimacy with the chromatic dragon clan became negative, must have appeared. There was something similar to one of the notifications that Leeha quickly swiped and closed.

『What is your name?』

“My name is Hyein.”

『Hyein. I will remember your name.』

When Bailephus finished speaking, Hyein flinched again.

‘If the gold dragon remembered his name – did he get another achievement?’

It was Leeha’s speculation. Hyein stared into space for a moment, smiled lightly, and bowed his head toward Bailephus once more.

“Thank you.”

Bailephus nodded and looked at Leeha.

『Hmm. Ha Leeha, are you ready?』

“Ready?”

『We will go meet lord Bahamut.』

“As, as expected. It must have been a bluff that he was coming. If he attacked, we would have been in big trouble.”

Leeha rubbed his chest as he recalled the situation just before. What if he fired at Bluebeard from there? He really didn’t want to imagine how things would turn out.


『Bluff?』

But it wasn’t the time to correct the slip of Leeha’s tongue. The gold dragon’s eyebrows tightened.

“No, that, uh, not a bluff. Strategy! I wanted to say strategy. I wanted to tell you that it was a brilliant strategy, Bailephus-nim.”

Leeha waved his hand and head at the same time, while Bailephus hummed and breathed out of his nose.

『Of course, it was a good strategy. Because in order to have guts to fight against a fragment of the demon king, one needs to be at least ancient-class.』

Leeha somehow imagined that this would be what Kidd would look like if he became an animal. And in the midst of that brief light commotion, Hyein, who had been laughing, patted Leeha on the shoulder.

“Thank you for calling me, Ha Leeha-ssi.”

The young man, who looked somewhat sickly, smiled and thanked Leeha. Thinking about it, Leeha didn’t even know Hyein’s age. How old was he? It probably didn’t differ much from his peers.

Hyein expressed his gratitude and Leeha received it. If this operation could be described as a national war, Hyein’s performance was close to a ‘first-class contributor’.

“I am really grateful. I worked harder than expected so my stomach hurt a bit. Did you get a lot of achievements?”

Hyein smiled and nodded at Leeha’s joke. At one point, they were trying to kill each other, but now, there were no such remnants to be found.

“Then, did I build trust with this?”

“Well. At least I can assume that there’s no ‘bad blood’ between Hyein-ssi and I.”

Leeha shrugged lightly as he looked at him. Hyein showed a slightly disappointed expression.

“I see. Trust can not be built in one go. However, that’s enough. Just by looking at my achievements…. I think I will see Leeha many more times in the future.”

“What is it? I haven’t seen the achievements yet…”

Hyein had no intention of directly answering Leeha’s questions. He held up his staff and drew a magic circle on the floor as he spoke.

“See for yourself later. Well then, I don’t think I was invited by Bahamut, so I will go. Till the next time we meet, gold dragon.”

『Hmm.』

“Goodbye, Hyein-ssi.”


When Hyein lifted his staff and put it in the middle of the magic circle, his body disappeared in an instant. Leeha opened the friend’s window and checked where he went.

‘Oh, why is he in such a hurry? I can’t even rest.’

It was a place he had never been before, but it was where Kijung, Tale, and Biyemi were. Probably somewhere around the city defending from Bluebeard’s demon nobles.

『Then shall we go?』

“Yes!”

Leeha smiled as he closed the friend’s window.

Byulcho’s members were doing their best while completing quests! Now it was his turn to be rewarded for his hard work over the past few days.

‘Uhhhh! How many replacement items can I get?’

Before he knew it, Leeha and Bailephus’ bodies moved to the lair of the dragon lord, Bahamut.

There were still dragons that polymorphed into humans in Bahamut’s lair.

A gigantic round table, the actual size of a dragon was rare enough to handle, so the place was too large to be in human form.

And the gold dragon that shone in that vast place had polymorphed in front of Bahamut.

‘It’s cool.’

When the scarred gold dragon polymorphed into a human, he also became the golden knight with scars everywhere.

Bahamut and other dragons seemed to already know.

That much speculation was natural in light of the fact that Bailephus was hurt, but he was with Leeha, and he was not hasty at all even when he came to Bahamut’s lair.

They had succeeded in killing Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh!

“Bailephus.”

“I have returned after finishing the mission, lord.”

Oooooohhh-!

Of course, that was just speculation. Even the dragons couldn’t help exclaiming for a while the moment their guess was confirmed.

“I can go back now!”

“I can’t believe it, Bailephus-nim-”

“I said it was impossible with Bailephus-nim alone! So, is it because of that human hero? That man was such a great person!”

There was no way he could not hear the dragons whispering. Leeha deliberately stretched his shoulders wider and pushed his chest out to take a confident posture.

‘Keu, praise me more, more!’

What did it mean to hear exclamations and praise in this place, where there were dragons that looked like children and dragons that look younger than his age?

He had done something that neither the hatchling nor the adult dragons had been able to do.

“Keulkeul, everone quiet.”

And at Bahamut’s one word, the dragon’s whispers stopped.

“The strength you said you needed was helpful, Bailephus.”

“Of course, lord.”

Bailephus nodded and took something from his chest.

Even the shape was unclear because it had already lost light, but Leeha knew what it was.

“D-dragon heart!”

“Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh?! Is that?”

“But- can you feel Blaugrunn’s mana?”

“Now, now, quiet, quiet.”

Boom, boom.

Bahamut tapped the table again and the dragons fell silent.

Because it was difficult for them to experience this kind of event, Leeha quietly shook his head.

“Indeed……. That did happen.”

“Yes. Lord.”

Until that situation was created, Bailephus’ efforts were even greater.

Not only Leeha but also Hyein’s achievement. But sometimes the person who gets the most attention is the one who scores the goals.

“Human Ha Leeha, you have accomplished Blaugrunn’s legacy. You have killed Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.”

Bailephus gave all the credit to Leeha. Bahamut smiled and accepted Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s heart, which was studded with Blaugrunn’s dragon heart bullets.

“Ha Leeha.”

“Y-yes, lord Bahamut.”

“You have not only defeated the enemy who poses a threat to our clan… It is similar to saving a member of our group who couldn’t feel safe even in their rest area.”

“It was nothing. It’s something I can’t even say I did.”

Leeha, on the other hand, spoke humbly. It had already been said. More than anything, at this moment, being proud was actually not appropriate.

It was because he knew better than anyone else that he couldn’t do it alone, and that he could do it because everyone joined forces.

“What an unhuman-like humility. Golgol, but it’s true. Without you, it wouldn’t have been possible with the power of Bailephus or anyone else. Because you would be the only one who wouldn’t be detected by Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and another hindrance.”

Bahamut stood up and approached Leeha.

He could feel the dignity of the only ‘Platinum Dragon’ in the metal dragon clan that Leeha hadn’t felt before when he was on the other side of the round table.

Leeha forcibly endured the loss of strength in his legs. It was as if someone was pressing down on the system from about.

“Thank you so much.”

“Yes.”

As Leeha lowered his head, Bailephus, who was next to him, stabbed in the side. He could make out Bailephus’s lips telling him to kneel.

As Leeha knelt down on one knee, Bailephus took a step aside. The other dragons showed the appearance of Bahamut and Leeha with pious expressions.

“Human Ha Leeha. I ask you.”

Gulp, Leeha was a point to point out to Leeha. It was simply the completion of the quest. Is this like an ordination ceremony between a king and a knight……?

“Yes, lord.”

“Do you have the heart to defend justice and do good?”

In the meantime, Leeha was worried

‘Should I answer this like Alexander? I’m not good at the concept!……

(To be continued…)
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 However, this was not the time to be embarrassed!

Fortunately, out of all the misfortunes, there were no human users nearby. Leeha trembled while imagining how much Kijung would have laughed if he had seen this, then answered Bahamut.

“Yes, I promise to uphold justice and enforce good.”

“Do you have the heart to become a member of the metal dragon clan, and become part of my, 8th Platinum Dragon Lord Bahamut’s, family?”

A member of the metal dragon clan. And Bahamut’s family. Leeha felt a tingling sensation run down his spine. No matter how much he controlled himself, the excitement he felt was similar to the excitement he felt when he first held the Black Bass.

“Yes, lord.”

“You have sufficiently proved your heart and skills to the metal dragon clan. Do all witnesses agree?”

Yes, my lord!

All the dragons around the round table shouted in unison. Of course, Bailephus was also among the roaring voice.

“I declare this with the consent of the thirty-three clans present under executioner Bailephus. Human Ha Leeha-”

Bahamut nodded and put his hand on Leeha’s shoulder.

“-As of this time you are a part of my family.”

『You have completed the quest “Enemies of the metal dragon Clan”.』

Babam-!

And another achievement fanfare rang out in Leeha’s head. The solemn atmosphere changed in an instant. They conversed with each other with admiration and excitement.

“To be able to see something that I have never seen before in my entire life as a hatchling, twice as soon as I became an adult!”

“How long has it been since we’ve seen humans become a part of our family?”

“This is the first time lord Bahamut has spoken like that! No, then what about your partner?”

Leeha, not knowing when to get up, still knelt down and listened to their conversation. With the word partner, the dragons became quiet.

The one who spoke again was Bailephus, a high-ranking dragon with the title ‘executioner’ among the metal dragon clan.


“In Alexander’s case, I was there… What are you going to do with Leeha’s case, lord?”

“Haha, right. Even though he is a member of my family and our clan…. I can’t be his partner, can I?”

“T-that’s right, of course. If you’re the lord’s partner, we’re all-”

“Right, right. If we do that, our genealogy will be in disorder.”

“Of course.”

It was an affair that even Bailephus was too flustered to look around. However, Leeha, the person in question, was able to think of one thing in an instant.

‘Partner?! In Alexander’s case, that’s his expression…. After he went through this, he was promoted to Dragon Knight!’

He might have completed some requests from Bailephus and become a member of the metal dragon clan by clearing the quest.

Perhaps, if Alexander had an achievement, it would have been expressed as ‘Gold Dragon Bailephus’ family’.

Then what about Leeha?

‘Could it be that I can ride the dragon lord?’

The dragon lord was so strong that even Bluebeard was so scared that he ran away?! Of course, Leeha was not a fool.

Isn’t that why Bailephus was panicking and talking to Bahamut? That situation would not happen.

“Let’s see, if it’s Ha Leeha’s partner, who is- ah, ahhh. Right, yes, yes.”

Bahamut, who was looking around the dragons, clapped his hands!

Leeha waited for Bahamut’s decision with a pounding heart.

‘It’s not red- because it is part of the chromatic family. Silver dragon? No, no. Copper dragon or steel? The gold dragon isn’t bad either. Even if it wasn’t Bailephus-class ancient. I think it would be fun to be together even if it was just at the adult level.’

In his head, Leeha already imagined himself flying on a dragon and using Black Bass.

If that becomes reality, he would have destructive power that was incomparable to that of the past when he rode Jin Gonggong and shot in the air.

The dragon’s shield and magic could protect Leeha for 24 hours and 360 degrees!


And the only thing that breaks through would be attacked by Leeha! Space movement and shield, a stronger partner than any other users in the air or on the ground!

“Didn’t you say that you inherited the will of Blaugrunn! Then let’s just say he is Blaugrunn’s partner.”

It was Bahamut’s incredulous remarks that broke that delightful imagination.

“……What do you mean by that, lord?”

Leeha felt something in the playful voice of the old man named lord Bahamut, although even Bailephus lowered his head.

‘Surely…… no way……. What about Blaugrunn, ah, blaugrun is dead. What nonsense-’

“It was really unfortunate. Hmmm-…. Still, how happy it is to have Ha Leeha, my family, avenge his partner.”

Every time Bahamut uttered a word, countless question marks were drawn on Leeha’s head.

‘Please, please don’t do that, please, please, please. Please!’

And as if he was reading Leeha’s thoughts, Bahamut grabbed Leeha’s shoulder and stood up.

“Please take good care of me in the future, my family.”

What did Bailephus notice from Bahamut?

When the executioner started clapping, all the dragons around him followed suit. Then Bahamut cautiously moved his head forward.

No one heard the quiet chanting in Leeha’s ear.

“It doesn’t matter if I do this since you have Blaugrunn’s dragon heart anyway, right?”

“Ah…”

Was it because of that…?

Dragonlord Bahamut already knew that Leeha had the dragon heart.

In other words, he lost the opportunity to partner with a real dragon while trying to use a dragon heart.

However, who can he blame?


Leeha couldn’t say anything except for a short groan. With this, the musketeer will never become a dragon knight.

Damn it!!

Since Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had been killed, there was no reason to be here anymore.

With all of the rituals of accepting Leeha as a member of the metal dragon clan over, they began to return to their lairs one by one.

While everyone was returning, only Bailephus remained.

The golden knight talked to Bahamut about Bluebeard.

From the fact that he took Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s head to the red dragon’s corpse using a necromancer.

While the dragons were talking, Leeha checked his achievements.

The first thing he checked was the achievement that appeared right after killing Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

『Achievement: Ancient Dragon Slayer – red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh(S-)』

Congratulations! The glory of being a dragon slayer can only be obtained by those who destroy dragon hearts! You are the one and only Dragon Slayer in the Middle Earth continent. Dragons will naturally feel the energy of the dragon slayer radiating from your body. You can boast of your majesty to all races beyond humanity.

Reward: 21 Stat Points, Permanent Buff – Dragon Slayer

『You are the first registrant of the Achievement 『Ancient Dragon Slayer – red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh』』.

Up to the first registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: 42 Stat Points

‘Wow……. I see. Dragons do not respawn. Besides, it’s S- rank……

Even named monsters appear at regular intervals, just like field bosses.

However, this meant that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh is a monster that will never respawn again. He was the only the first person to be inducted into the Hall of Fame.

The highest rank that Leeha ever received was A+.

It was a while later that Leeha, who was reading the contents of the achievement confirmed that it was S- rank, was surprised once more.

‘21 stat points? What is this? Doesn’t A+ have 18 points?! Didn’t they add one for each rank?’

B+ has 15, a- has 16, a has 17, a+ has 18.

Of course, Leeha thought that S- should give at least 19, but this time, 3 stats were added at once. Of course, if he included the Hall of Fame, the number is multiplied, and it would be overwhelming!

『Achievement: Member of the metal dragon Clan(A+)』

Congratulations! You inherited the power by using the dragon heart you received, and you are finally recognized as a member of the metal dragon clan! All metal dragons will welcome you who have crossed the ascension gate and ascended as a dragon. Of course, we shouldn’t forget the opposite case, right?

Reward: 18 stat points, affinity with Metal Dragons +10%

Affinity with Chromatic Dragons -10%

You are the second registrant of the achievement 『Member of the metal dragon Clan』.

Up to the first registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: 36 stat points, affinity with Metal Dragons +20%

Affinity with Chromatic Dragons -20%

‘The dragon heart was used, that’s right. It seems that this is related to the ‘Enter the Dragon Gate’ achievement…. Hyein must not have known, it might just be Alexander and me. The intimacy is over now. My intimacy with the chromatic dragons must be -300. Hehe.’

Unless he received a dragon heart, Hyein will not receive the Enter the Dragon Gate achievement, and the corner of Leeha’s mouth slowly rose. But that wasn’t the end.

『Achievement: My Eternal Partner – Bronze Dragon ‘Blaugrunn’ (A+)』

Congratulations! You have been assigned a dragon partner by the king of metal dragons, Bahamut. From this moment on, the designated dragon and you will become partners unlike anyone else in the world, defending the justice of the great king and enforcing good. Everyone on the continent will be looking forward to and waiting for the noble will of oneness that transcends race. Reward: 36 stat points, skill- Summon(Partner), skill- Appear(Partner)

(This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame.)

Although Blaugrunn, the partner that was given to you after you became a part of the metal dragon clan, no longer exists in this world, he is still on Leeha’s side according to the record.

‘Ugggh, as expected! I knew it!’

Leeha cried out in his heart. If Blaugrunn had been alive!

I could have called him out at any time I needed him or moved to him immediately! It was like having an emergency escape skill that went beyond simply teleporting between the three musketeers!

Even so, blaugrun did not come back alive.

Taking comfort in having gained a lot of stat points, Leeha looked at his last achievement.

『Achievement: Follower of the Platinum Dragon ‘Bahamut'(S)』

Congratulations!

You have become a follower of the dragon lord Bahamut, the 8th platinum dragon of the Middle Earth continent. He is not your companion or master, but as the head of the family, he will welcome you into his family. At least to Bahamut, you are a member of the same family as all metal dragons, and the king of metal dragons will do their best to protect their family.

Reward: 25 stat points, skill- Platinum Shield, skill- Hallucination – Bahamut

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Follower of the Platinum Dragon ‘Bahamut’』

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.

Effect: 50 Stat points

‘S-rank? S-rank is surprising-’

And the moment Leeha confirmed the achievement.. Babam-!

(To be continued…)
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 『Congratulations everyone! For the first time in Middle Earth, an S-class achievement earner has appeared.］

『Ha Leeha, musketeer, lv. 172, Fibiel Citizen］

『Please do your best so that you don’t lose!』

‘Huh?’

Middle Earth didn’t let the best user go.

It is their style to induce people to get a gold medal, Leeha’s level, affiliation, and occupation have been revealed to all Middle Earth users.

“W-what is this? Why all of a sudden- keuk!”

And after a while, Leeha had to grab his ringing head.

Dozens of whispers rang simultaneously as if talking directly into his head.

Kijung: Eong-ah?! Eong-ah? I contacted you because I thought I saw something wrong?!

Biyemi: Kikis, halihali-nim! What have you been doing?

Hyein: No way…… Was there an S-class achievement during that operation with me?

Hwayeon: Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha! Answer me! Where are you and what are you doing right now! Why doesn’t the location information appear?!

Hwajung: Oppa. S-class.

Nara: Leeha-ssi! What! What happened? S-class? No, let’s meet up soon and I will listen to it. You didn’t forget your promise, right? This Saturday!

Kidd: What are you doing? What is Bluebeard’s whereabouts and what is he doing?

Luger: Where the hell are you! Today, we must have a 1-on-1 duel.

Lee Jiwon: Awesome! Ha Leeha-hyungnim! S-class? Will you agree to exchange information with two A+-class achievements? Oh look〜!

‘Kkeuk, it’s so loud!’

Leeha had blocked whispers from strangers in the past. In other words, all the whispers now were people who had been added as a friend or were allowed to whisper.


Even just that, the simultaneous voices disturbed Leeha’s mind.

‘Damn it, what is this- this could be used to attack later? A skill is not needed.’

Leeha quickly opened the settings, lowered the whispering sound, and answered each of them with “I’ll explain later when we meet, I’m busy right now so I’ll talk to you soon, etc.”

Of course, he couldn’t ignore all the whispers.

In particular, there was one thing that made Leeha feel nervous, so he quickly whispered Kijung.

Leeha: Kijung!

Kijung: Oh, hyung! What is it? What is-

Leeha: No, no, that’s not important right now. Are you available this Saturday?

Kijung’s voice stopped for a moment.

What could be more important that S-class achievement? He couldn’t ask more about the achievement because of Leeha’s urgent voice.

Kijung: Saturday? Oh…… tomorrow?

Leeha: Is it Friday today already?

Kijung: Eong-ah! Log out a little when you play the game! You’re going to get sick! It is already Friday at 10am!

Leeha: Ugh, I knew it had been a few days….

Leeha covered his head. It was unbelievable. It was Friday already.

Five days in Middle Earth is one day in reality, so he thought that a few days would pass after he had a conversation with Shin Nara and proceeded with the quest to kill Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

However, it was finished the day before the appointment, so Leeha didn’t know if he should be happy or sad.

Kijung: Why? What is it?

Leeha: Let’s have lunch together tomorrow.

Kijung: Hmm……. I have time, but going on a date with hyung is a little bit-


Leeha: Stop talking nonsense! That…… Nara-ssi and Bobae-ssi will come as well.

And there was no answer. Leeha suddenly checked the state of the whisper with Kijung and he could not even hear the sound of breathing.

‘Did he block me?’

Of course that was not possible.

Kijung: Uwaaaaaaa! Hyung——?! Hyung一 -!? Hyu———ung!

Chiiiiiing……. Leeha sat down again holding his head.

“What’s going on, Ha Leeha?”

“Nothing, keuk… It’s nothing.”

“Perhaps Bluebeard’s mana-”

“No, no, it’s nothing like that.”

“Hmm. But be careful. That guy is pretty good at mental attacks.”

Leeha felt a little respect for his half-cousin as he listened to Bailephus’ worried words.

Being able to whisper loud enough to be compared to Bluebeard’s, one of the fragment of the demon king’s, mental attack. It was a great ability.

Kijuung: Did you get the date? When did you get it? Why did you tell me just a day before?! You should have told me sooner!

Leeha: I didn’t know that time would fly so fast. Well, there’s nothing to be nervous about, just relax because Nara-ssi asked to have a lunch-

Kijung: Relax? Are you relaxed? Ahhh, I knew it would be like this. If I’m not there, hyung will be in big trouble. Hyung, when are you going to log out? I’ll go first.	”

Leeha: W-what?

Kijung: I just finished defending a city. I’m going to log out right away! Leeha was going to log out after about 5 hours in Middle Earth’s time!

Leeha: W-wait. Kijung-ah!

Kijung logged out without Leeha being able to stop him.


Judging from the fact that the members of Byulcho changed their locations soon after, Kijung’s words must have been true.

But……. But, just like that…

Leeha was surprise by his cousin’s momentum, but on the other hand, he was relieved.

He bluffed Kijung to relax, but it was Leeha who was actually more nervous.

“Now then, what do you want to do?”

“What?”

Bahamut spoke quietly to Leeha, who had piled up a mountain of worries over the lunch promise with Shin Nara.

“The gift.”

“Ah! Item! Cough…. I could choose 3 from Blaugrunn’s lair, 1 from Bahamut-nim’s lair, and 5 from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair. Right?”

“Yes.”

“Hmmm…… Can I check Bahamut-nim’s lair for today? There’s no time limit is there?”

Leeha had no intention of making a hasty choise. He wanted to choose an item as slow as possible and after a long examination. And dragons were more considerate than humans.

“You can’t can’t stay long in Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair, but mine and Blaugrunn’s lairs are fine. Then, shall we take a look?”

“Yes!”

When Leeha answered loudly, Bailephus, who was next to Leeha, also smiled happily.

“Lord Bahamut, I am leaving now.”

“Ah, okay. I have troubled you a lot. You had it really hard.”

“No worries. Then……. Ha Leeha, I will see you next time.”

“Yes, Bailephus-nim.”

The golden knight bade farewell to Leeha kindly and shuk-! He disappeared.

“Now, let’s dust off the warehouse, even though it’s modest.”

In a place where there were no dragons or humans except for Leeha and Bahamut, Bahamut put his hand on Leeha’s shoulder and cast a teleport.

Shyuuk-!

After a moment, Leeha fell into a different world.

A different world where gold coins were strewn across the floor, and Fibiel’s royal treasury looked like a doghouse.

In front of Dragon Lord Bahamut, there were so many items that the exclamation ‘crazy’ came out naturally.

“Excuse me, Bahamut-nim.”

“Hmm?”

“I’m sorry for saying this now, but wouldn’t it be better if you increase the reward to two?”

“Haha. As expected of someone who became a member of our clan. You’re funny.”

Leeha looked at Bahamut with the most pitiful expression possible.

“How can you say that- now that we are a family! One for working hard in catching Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, and one as a gift for family celebration-”

“Then, take it slow.”

After ignoring Leeha’s request like it was nothing, Bahamut used teleport again.

In the first place, this warehouse also meant that it was so wide, deep, and large that it was impossible to walk around.

‘Tsk, of course I thought it wouldn’t work……. It’s a pity.’

Leeha licked his lips while looking at the various treasures that were scattered like pebbles in a huge warehouse with no end in sight.

Was it for polymorphing into human, or was it set up to present to users? Anyway, there were many items that humans could use.

There were so many items that he could not see the end of it.

‘Depending on the dragon class, there will definitely be differences in lair and items. What about Adult-class Blaugrunn and ancient-class Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh? Ancient Wyrm? Anyway, Bahamut was the oldest. Of course, compared to the other two places, it meant that this lair had the most items.’

Leeha had a systematic plan. What he should choose. What the best item was.

‘I have to choose legendary-rank. It’s a loss. Legendary, no, maybe above? Is there a higher rank?’

Middle Earth did not disclose any information. Users just find out and share the information.

Of course, legendary-rank was what everyone thought to be the top, but it wouldn’t be strange to say that there was something higher.

Neither Alexander nor Lee Jiwon had mentioned anything higher than the legendary-rank.

However, it was a thought that only beginners in Middle Earth would think that there’s no such item just because they did not say it.

‘I don’t even know if those two have already gotten it and are pretending not to know. Okay, I will first check my stat. Character window!’

How sad it would be if he couldn’t wear it when an item came out higher than legendary rank. Leeha decided to check his level along with his extra stats.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 172

(81.2%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements : 104

HP : 4,640(3,248) / MP ： 1,260 Stats: Strength: 334(+249)

Agility: 2,338(+1,420)

Intelligence: 148(+97)

Constitution: 151(+58)

Mind: 45(+35)

Remaining Stat Points: 278

His confirmed level was 172.

Because Middle Earth even showed a notification window on a large scale. When Leeha saw that it wasn’t “above” 172.

‘There appears to be something wrong with the…… stats.’

But even when he rubbed his eyes, nothing changed. Was it wrong? Not a single bug have been seen in Middle Earth so far. Leeha’s eyes gradually widened and his mouth began to open.

‘Surely? Really?’

However, the dragon slayer-related achievement was on a different level of difficulty from normal achievements.

How many stat points were attached to each achievement individually, and how many more was added by the Hall of Fame?

If he added up the level up points and 10 bonus stats points every 5 levels, the number was just right.

“Crazy… … . If I mention this to someone else, they will report it to the GM, no?”

The corners of his mouth that unknowingly went up, came down. It was hard for someone else even 1 stat points……. After calculating the maximum limit stat points for each item, he closed the character window.

‘Good. I could at least get legendary! I can look for it and match the stats-’

“Ahk!”

Leeha’s body, which had taken a brave step forward, stumbled.

“Ah, that surprised my. What is this?”

It was because he stepped on a round item and sprained his foot.

There were so many items and only the gold coins were visible on the floor, so it was hard to see properly.

‘It looks like an ostrich egg. Is it a jewel? I don’t need this.’

Leeha looked at the item he stepped on, and the outer skin of the oval-shaped object, which was larger than he thought, and was shining brightly, so it looked like a gem, but it did not attract Leeha’s interest.

To Leeha’s eyes, that wanted to find a legendary or higher ranked item, it was an item that was no different from many other items scattered on the floor.

‘It’s a ‘treasure’ that’s not much different. Oh, it’s funny that I use this expression.’

After rolling the egg around with his feet, he walked back toward the mountain of equipments.

(To be continued…)
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 “What is this…? A plow in a farmhouse shed in the countryside would be better managed than this one.”

The closer he got, the more it reminded him of a warehouse in a farmhouse that was decades old. Just as rusty farming tools were stocked together, all kinds of weapons, including swords, were stacked like toys, but the contents were not to be ignored.

“They are legendary.”

Sheuk, he drew a sword. It was legendary-ranked.

“What, this is also a legend.”

He pulled out another. It was legendary-ranked. He dropped the legendary and picked up the spear next to it. It was legendary-ranked.

“There’s no…… heroic-rank……?”

At this point, he was stunned. Anything he picked up was legendary-ranked, everything was legendary…….

Kidd’s 『Crimson Geckos』 and Luger’s 『Cobalt Blue Python』 were basically heroic-rank.

But now, in this place, he could see more legendary-ranked items, than heroic-ranked items?!

“……It’s not even the hometown of legends, there’s so many legendary-ranked items…… This is so crazy. This isn’t the time for me to get an item to use, right?”

Leeha’s thoughts have changed slightly. He simply wanted to find equipment that he could use before, but the situation was different if there were so many legendary-ranked items. The most popular item throughout Middle Earth was the one-handed sword. Because it could be worn by all classes, regardless if they were damage-dealers or tanks.

Compared to similar grade two-handed swords, maces, muskets, etc.. the overwhelming price range was formed because there was an overwhelming demand for it.

‘What if a one-handed sword with a higher grade than legendary rank comes out…?’ If he put it up for auction, it might go up to 1 billion. With the money, Leeha collected so far, with that 1 billion- and with a little more farming……

Gulp. It would not be just a dream.

‘No, if it’s like that, I’d rather find another item that all jobs can use. I heard that what Granville took from Fibiel’s royal treasury was a magic horse.’

What if there was a similar mount like that? It can be used not only as a simple means of transportation but also for emergency escape during combat. There’s no way that mages or ranged dealers who were weak in close combat would not want such an item.

‘It would be good for tankers to use to bring in monsters. Hey, what is this-’

After thinking about it as a business item, he couldn’t stop thinking about it. In a sense, Bahamut’s gift was like torture for Leeha.

In a gigantic treasure trove with no end in sight, with at least 70% of the contents of which are legendary-ranked items, and asked to choose ‘just one’!


“Aaargh! Oh god! Why are you giving me such an ordeal!”

It was a waste of time to scream. Leeha decided to spend the next 5 hours to find the most expensive item he could find.

“Now then, let’s start mining.”

Pasasak- pasasak-!

Leeha started digging through the mountain of items.

He ran out of stamina and felt a tingling sensation in his fingertips, but even that seemed enjoyable.

“It didn’t show up easily. Is there really no higher rank?”

Leeha, who was working with his sleeves rolled up, sat on the floor and took a breather for a moment.

The gold coins on the floor pricked his buttocks, so the cloak he sat under like a rag was of course legendary rank.

He didn’t even notice any heroic-rank items, but he had seen so many legendary-ranked items that.

‘No, it’s too early to give up. I have already worked for 4 hours, now I only have 1 hour left? Maybe because I have only seen a little part of it.’

There were some that he had checked the detailed descriptions carefully, but there were too many.

“Phew, in the worst case, I think I can just pick up anything and sell it……. Kek, come to think of it, it’s funny how I use the word ‘in the worst case’ while choosing a legendary ranked item.”

A few items were set aside at the edge of the piled-up items like a mountain.

Among the items Leeha found, there were items with options that could be sold at the most expensive price.

‘But there really is no such item. It’s best if there’s something that helps with magic

…… hmm?’

A glittering item entered Leeha’s eye as he sat down. It was the ostrich egg that he had almost stepped on and slipped right after checking his character window.

‘Come to think of it, there are many other kinds of jewelry, but I only saw one over there. It might be somewhere else, but Bahamut’s item classification is where similar items were grouped together.’

When it comes to sapphires, there were all kinds of sapphires, there were all kinds of sapphires in all colors and types. As for diamonds, there were rows of diamonds of all sizes and colors.


After more than 4 hours, even Bahamut’s classification could be roughly guessed.

But what about items like the ostrich egg? He couldn’t see it anywhere except for the spot where Leeha stepped on it.

Of course, there were so many treasures that Leeha thought that there might be another one somewhere, but after digging for at least 5 hours, only that was confirmed.

‘Let’s look at it one more time. Maybe it’s an item that has something to do with me since I stepped on it first-’

Beep-! Beep-! Beep-!

“Huh?”

Just as he was about to stand up, he heard an alarm on his head. It was a sound he had never heard since starting Middle Earth.

『An external call has occurred.』

There was only one reason for an external call to occur at this time. It was probably Kijung waiting for Leeha next to the capsule with his neck stretched out.

Leeha suddenly remembered the days when he was changing jobs.

At that time, if his mother hadn’t unplugged the cord, if she had used this function, what would he be like now?

‘Would I just be an ordinary magician? Heh, I might be in a guild defending hard- no, would I have been able to grow that much? I might just be another user at level 100 now. My stats would not even compare.’

As expected, Leeha thought once again that life was a mystery, and prepared to log out.

As soon as he came out of the capsule, Kijung rushed at Leeha.

“Eong-ah! I told you to come out quickly.”

“I’m so sorry. By the way-”

“Cough, what? Are you going to be okay like this? Hyung, what will you wear? Also, concepts shouldn’t overlap too much, and it shouldn’t be too different as well.”

After Kijung helped Leeha, who was moving in a wheelchair, he stood in front of him showing off his looks. Despite the neat and dandy style and skinny body, his body line was revealed.

“Hey, what…… It’s not like I’m going to show off. It’s winter, shouldn’t we just dress warmly?”

“My hyung is saying something bad! Well, that’s why I’m here. Now, let’s go to hyung’s room. Just look at you, we have to take care of your hair today, and if you don’t have any nice clothes, let’s go out and do some shopping! There are more than one or two things to prepare!”


Kijung made a fuss, grabbed the wheelchair handle, and pushed.

Of course, Leeha was only able to speak once. Anyway, he was going to meet Shin Nara, so there was no way he wanted to dress casually.

‘But dressing up like that…’

Leeha, who had served in the military until right before the accident, did not have many opportunities to wear clothes other than his uniform. The best one was maybe a tracksuit.

Originally, he had no interest in fashion or clothes, and it was something that he naturally had no choice but to distance himself more.

“Let’s see, where~”

“Hey, hey! Wait, it’s not like-”

“Ehehey, when choosing clothes, you have to take them out and check them out. Or you just wear the top one! Just trust me.”

Kijung drove the wheelchair to Leeha’s room, sat Leeha down, and searched the closet at random.

Kijung was certainly qualified to become the guild master of a guild. Leeha was tongue-tied at Kijung’s tremendous activity and extroversion.

‘Yeah, did I have clothes like that? When did I buy it?’

Leeha saw the clothes he himself bought and forgot. Kijung, who took out everything Leeha thought he had worn at least once, started matching this and that on Leeha’s body, who was sitting.

“Hmm, I think hyung has a surprisingly sharp image and it’s more like that because you have lost weight. How about this cute sweatshirt?”

Leeha was startled when he put on the sweatshirt with a large poodle face on it.

“Hey! Should I wear that kind of outfit when meeting with Nara-ssi-”

“Why, what is it? You said you weren’t going to before, and now you’re not able to wear something like this?”

“Caugh, that’s right. Wouldn’t that seem too light though?”

“Well, it could be. I have to dress hyung nicely… wait.”

However, there were bound to be limitations even for Kijung.

There weren’t many clothes to combine in the first place, so no matter how much he tried to match, it didn’t look cool at all.

“Hyung.”

“Huh? ”

“Let’s go shopping for clothes.”

“What? Do we have to go that far-”

“This again. Are Shin Nara-nim and Bobae-nim ordinary people?! They are Olympic medalists! They are geniuses in their fields, and if you are a Korean, you should know their names! I mean, they’re so famous! Of course, it is polite for us to dress up as much as possible. Isn’t it?”

Leeha was embarrassed, but he couldn’t beat Kijung when it came to issues related to the opposite sex.

Hearing those words, Leeha nodded for a moment, while Kijung pushed Leeha’s wheelchair.

‘Come to think of it, how much shopping will we do…?’

The difference from before was that he did not have any minor concerns.

“Wait a minute, Kijung-ah.”

“Huh?”

Leeha put on a coat Kijung brought him and took out a wallet inside. There were only a few bills in the wallet, but those were incidental.

Chwaaak-!

The real thing on the wallet! After inserting an old check card between the index and middle finger, Leeha spread out his fingers.

“Since we’re buying, we should buy something good. We should buy something for mom as well.”

“Wow~ Eong-ah~? That’s cool!”

“Let’s use it now. Let’s go! Thank you for helping me, I will buy you a delicious meal!”

“Hehe, I get it! Then, let’s go to the department store!”

“Huh? T-that might seem a little expensive-”

“Ehehey, why are you sounding so weak when we just started?”

“Okay, let’s go. Let’s go!”

“I will take care of you!”

When Leeha accepted as if he couldn’t win, Kijung giggled and pushed Leeha’s wheelchair.

***

How long did it take to get some fresh air?

Thinking that it would be nice if he could walk on his own two legs in good health, Leeha went shopping with Kijung.

And he quickly regretted it.

The average shopping time prior to the incident was less than 15 minutes after arriving at the shopping location. Think about what to buy, then go and pick it up. Ttuk.

However, Kijung’s shopping process was different from Leeha’s.

Leeha went shopping for the first time that day, and it was the first time the two men walked around for more than 2 hours.

“Are you all right, Kijung-ah?”

“Awesome. Hyung is much cooler than when he was in his military uniform.”

“Hmmm, this is hair, but it’s a bit-”

“It’s not. You already have a sharp impression, so if you expose your entire forehead, you can look sharper. First of all, all the long hair was cut off, it’s better to have natural bangs, hyung.”

“Is that so?”

***

Finally, it was 11 am on Saturday.

Kijung and Leeha arrived at the place of their appointment with Shin Nara in advance.

Kijung, who came to Leeha’s house early in the morning, finished everything from hair styling to rechecking the coordination he had shopped on Friday.

Leeha felt ready, but his heart was a little uneasy.

(To be continued…)
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 “Well, you’d know just by looking at it. Ugh, just by looking at her first expression…”

It wasn’t because of the awkward hair and clothes. It was because he was worried about how Shin Nara would look at him.

Apart from being confident and dignified, how will the other person react?

Even if it can be fixed, how much will she believe?

Although he hadn’t met a few people after the accident, Leeha knew very well the pitiful expression mixed with sympathy, and the discriminatory and ignoring looks that he had experienced several times.

‘I don’t think Nara is that kind of person, but…’

Even though he had an appointment from Middle Earth and set the time and place, Leeha had not been able to say anything about his condition to the end.

In a way, it was an act that can be called bad manners. However, such words did not come out easily from the perspective of the person concerned.

“Eong-ah, eong-a!h”

“Huh?”

“There-I-It’s them, right?”

Kijung made a fuss by tapping Leeha, who was lost in thought. Since it was winter, the meeting place was indoors, but there was no way it wouldn’t be cold.

“T-That’s right…… I think.”

It felt like the cold had gone away in an instant. It couldn’t be because of the two women who opened the door and came in. Nevertheless, Leeha felt that the temperature inside the room increased after the two people came in.

She was attractive even wearing plate mail in Middle Earth, but she had a beauty that was incomparable to when she wore iron armor.

A nice beige leather mustang lined with pinkish hair, dark blue skinny jeans and black ankle boots that stretched down, and her trademark long straight black hair.

Her body, hardened by exercise, had a different kind of charm than just skinny and thin women.

“Then, that’s Bobae-ssi……?”

A heart was drawn in Kijung’s eyes. Bobae next to Shin Nara also had a cute face that would stand out anywhere. Compared to the lavishly decorated Shin Nara, Bobae wore a long white padded jacket. At first glance, she was dressed like a white penguin, but it rather seemed to blend in with Bobae’s fierce face, giving off more cuteness. It was so charming and beautiful that the other people inside turned their heads toward the two people walking together…. It would have been more strange if Leeha and Kijung had not been taken aback.

“How- How should we say hello?”


“Hey, why are you panicking? You told me to leave it to you!”

“No, should we pretend to know them first? H hyung, quick, call Nara-nim. I’m not that close to them.”

“Me? B-but it’s a little bit for you to call them. Wouldn’t it be better if you pretended to know them?”

“Ah, stupid hyung. Those two may not recognize my face, so how can I call them first?”

The two men were attracting attention for a different reason than the two women.

Step, step, step.

As they were making a fuss, two women approached them. Bobae, wearing a long padding, smiled and pointed at the two.

“Right, right. Ha Leeha-ssi and Master Kay, right? Haha, I could recognize you from a distance.”

The men stopped moving.

“Ah- yes, hello, Bobae-nim. Long time no see. Is this the first time we met after the palace?”

While Kijung awkwardly bowed, Leeha’s head slowly rose. A woman’s voice echoed through his head in slow motion.

“Leeha-ssi?”

“Hel…… lo, Nara-ssi.”

Nara made eye contact with Leeha, who was sitting in a wheelchair. Leeha looked into her eyes, and he could see that Shin Nara’s eyes did not have a single disturbance.

“We finally met, we.”

Looking into her eyes, Leeha was sure that she is a ‘more’ outstanding woman than he initially thought.

“I know, right? Haha.”

When Leeha laughed awkwardly, Shin Nara smiled along with Leeha. Her cheeks were stained red with a bright smile. Leehea couldn’t tell if it was because of the chill in the winter or if it was because of some other reason. The tallest tower in Seoul was always crowded. Among the many people, their combination stood out. A man in a wheelchair, a fairly tall man, and two Olympic medalists.

“Oh, isn’t that person Shin Nara?”

“Isn’t that Bobae next to her?”


And as much as eyes were drawn, the number of people who recognized them also increased. The names of Shin Nara and Bobae began to be mentioned in the onlooker’s cries.

“The person sitting in front of them is a paralympic? Is he a paralympic athlete? It’s my first time seeing them…”

“Kek, they must have come out to play because they are tired from exercising.”

“Looks like they are close with disabled athletes.”

It was a natural reaction.

It was difficult to regard a person in a wheelchair as ‘normal’.

People who consider it normal to violate their mental dignity, even if just a part of their body is uncomfortable.

Leeha suddenly felt his face burning, and it was the same with Kijung. Suddenly, they wondered if they were eating away at the honor of the two women. However, this thought was the vulgar conceit of the two men alone.

“No, aren’t we here on a date today?! Hehe, you guys should have fun too! Let’s go, Bobae.”

“Pum, anyway, her personality really.”

In fact, the two women were more determined and confident than Leeha and Kijung. Shin Nara spoke loudly as if asking the onlookers to listen, and Bobae laughed at the sight.

“Master Kay- no, Kijung-ssi, right? Let’s go first.”

“Ah…… yes.”

Bobae went beside the dumbfounded Kijung. Kijung was not short by any means, but Bobae was also formidable. As Bobae led Kijung and went ahead, Shin Nara slowly approached Leeha.

“What is it, really? It’s our first time meeting each other, are you going to stay still? You talk so well in Middle Earth.”

She grumbled at Leeha with a cute smile. Only then was Leeha able to come to his senses a little.

“You are so pretty that I lost my mind for a moment. Let’s go, Nara-ssi.”

“Okay, let’s go quickly. Can you push yourself? I want to walk with you side by side, would that be okay?”

What did it matter what other people’s eyes were like? At least the woman in front of him saw him as a complete human being!

“I’m not that weak. What do you want to eat? I’ve been here for so long but I never roamed around, so I don’t know where to go.”


“Then, I will guide you. In fact, I had already planned it because I thought Leeha-ssi would not recognize me. Let’s go!”

Shin Nara winked at Leeha and started walking.

The distinction between male and female didn’t seem to matter too much to her. Walking cooly with a straight body, and by her side, Leeha began to push the wheels of the wheelchair by himself.

“So?”

“That’s when I suggested it. Leeha hyung, make use of your strengths! How meaningful and useful it must be for an army sniper to play musketeer.”

“Then, if it wasn’t for Kijung, Leeha-ssi would have had a different job?”

“It almost seems like that.”

Kijung talked to Bobae as if he was excited. Much of the content was modified to make himself look good, but Leeha did not point it out.

“Then how was the guild war? At the time, you fought him by yourself, right?”

“Ugh, there are a lot of things to tell…… where should I start? First, you saw the video where I blew Igor away with a shield, right? It’s just too much to tackle that Russian bear! But I was able to-”

Of course, Bobae, who listened happily next to him, was only talking to humor Kijung. Of course, Kijung was excited to answer each question. As they walked the short road to the restaurant, the two were already getting close.

“Leeha-ssi, were you really a sniper? Why does it seem like everything that Kijung told were lies?”

“As expected, Nara-ssi is sharp. The only true part is that I was a sniper.”

Listening to the conversation of Kijung and Bobae, who were walking ahead, Shin Nara quietly asked Leeha. Leeha answered with a chuckle.

“Wow, really? I see. So, that’s why you shoot well. Have you ever fired an air gun?”

“Sure. I learned air rifle after air pistols.”

“Are you good?”

“Yes. I am good.”

Before Shin Nara’s question was over, Leeha answered. Shin Nara giggled at Leeha’s quick response with a pffft sound.

“Oh, well. I couldn’t believe it because you said it so confidently.”

“Really. Hmm…… Nara-ssi when you joined the Olympics, Jungho was the best in shooting.”

“Jungho? Shin Jungho-ssi? Oh, 4 gold medals in men’s shooting at the Olympics?”

“Yes. My friend and I went to the same center. 15 and 16, for two years.”

“Really? Really?!”

Shin Nara’s eyes became round like a rabbit’s.

Leeha was somewhat surprised that he was able to tell such a story without hesitation. It felt as if Shin Nara was getting the story out of Leeha.

“This is a secret……. At that time, the youth division’s 10m air rifle, 50m 3 positions, and 50m prone shooting were always fixed for first and second place in the three events. Well, Jungho was better at shooting pistols than I was.”

“……No way, the number 1-”

“Of course it is me. Jungho, that friend of my is prideful, so don’t ask him about it.”

“Haha, how can I believe you if I don’t ask him about it! I’ll ask later.”

“No! You know how tired that bastard is.”

“Well, I’m not that close to Jungho-ssi.”

“Is that so? Aren’t you close to a lot of players in the athlete’s village?”

Leeha was only bragging to test his luck and check if he had competitors(?) close to Shin Nara. Leeha didn’t have much experience talking to women. However, his sniper’s instinct kicked in.

Where to attack! The 『Accuracy』 attribute was still the same.

“I have Bobae at least. If you go there, everyone is so focused on training that they don’t even talk much.”

“I see. But you will need a lot of time to train, and Middle Earth-”

“That’s training. Hehe, it’s good because the time efficiency is much higher. Outside, I only do weight training and physical training, and technical training is in Middle Earth!”

Shin Nara swung her arms around like she was excited.

Even though it seemed to be swung randomly, Leeha looked as if she had an epee in her hand.

It was a very light movement, but it was enough to feel that it was full of liveliness. Her nickname as a swordswoman in Middle Earth wasn’t for nothing.

“Hey Nara, come quickly!”

“Come quickly, you two! What are you talking about? Do it while eating!”

Looking at Leeha and Nara, who were quietly smiling, Bobae and Kijung turned around and shouted.

Up until now, they were walking ahead talking……. Leeha and Nara found them both ridiculous.

“Bobae doesn’t shy away from strangers, but she tends to keep a little distance from people she meets for the first time……. Kijung-ssi is amazing.”

“Hmm… It’s even more amazing that she’s still listening to Kijung talk until now. If it was someone else, they would have escaped already.”

The four of them entered the restaurant Nara and Bobae had found in advance.

It was practically the first time that a meeting of this kind was held, but one thing is for sure.

It was going very well.

(To be continued…)
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 Bang-!

The conference room door opened violently and a user walked in.

The place was filled with NPC nobles, but no one could blame the rudeness of the user who rushed in.

“An official proposal finally came from Minis!!”

Everyone instinctively knew that what they had been waiting for so long had come and focused on him.

Listening to the user’s words, a red-haired woman nodded. Ram Hwayeon raised the corner of her lips and asked.

“It is only natural, so what is their proposal?”

“They will give two castles and one city facing the Marching Plains! The attitude of the people who tried to give only Castle Van Cowl completely changed!”

It was a shout of joy. And everyone realized that it was finally time to end the game of tug-of-war without any ropes. Count Quintum, who had argued with Browless before, cried out as he slammed the table with a bang.

“Yes! Yes! That’s it! Finally, marquis!”

“As for the things we face- hmm, if we get those two castles and one city, we can push our borders further, and we would be able to prevent future invasions from Minis!”

Marching Plains acted as a natural buffer between Fibiel and Minis, but what if Fibiel was able to get those two castles and a city?

Although the cities can be said to be in an isolated situation, in terms of the country as a whole, they can be made into an outpost. If Minis made any suspicious movements, the cities could quickly detect it and report it to the capital!

“Although Marching Plains is a deserted land, and crops are impossible to grow, our country could still make use of that large land! We can definitely conduct military training there in the future.”

“Haha, that’s right.”

The NPC nobles laughed because they were able to save the face they had thrown away when they rejected the people asking them to sign the peace treaty in exchange for Castle Van Cowl.

And there were no people who did not show happy faces in such a joyous place.

“What do you think, Hwahong’s guild master?”

Marquis Hujak quietly opened his mouth. His voice was soft, but the power contained within it was by no means weak.

When he opened his mouth, all the NPCs who had been laughing and chatting, as well as the user who brought the news, shut their mouths.


Only after the atmosphere in the hall had sufficiently calmed down that Ram Hwayeon opened her mouth.

“It’s only been two weeks since we got information that Minis is under attack from chimeras. And in only two weeks they are already in a hurry to sign the peace treaty. In fact, if we check the intelligence reports these past few days we can see that Minis is having a hard time defending against the chimeras. They are having a hard time defending even with their most powerful knights…. It is also said that an unknown person- presumably Bluebeard- had intervened to protect and release the chimeras.”

“Hmmm…… So?”

“Minis is the one who is in a hurry to sign the peace treaty. And it seems Marquis Hujak already thought so… We should naturally reject their proposal”

Hearing Ram Hwayeon’s words, the marquis nodded.

However, only he agreed, and the other nobles criticized Ram Hwayeon as their eyes looked like it was about to pop out.

“R-Refuse? Did you just say we should refuse the peace treaty?”

“What is this nonsense? If we do that – if we do that, what would we do if they gave up? If they say that they will do whatever they want with the chimera-”

“There should be a moderate push and pull in negotiations, and that’s the reason we haven’t signed the peace treaty, but the situation is different now!”

“Marquis Hujak, that might be overreaching-”

Baaaang—-!

Ram Hwayeon slammed the table with her palm and stood up and the hall became quiet in an instant.

“Everyone really doesn’t know anything. Is the border that important? We will not be able to make any profit at the border anyway! Additionally, the two castles and the city they are giving are useless! These places have little monthly income and are literally useless except for their defensive purposes”

When Ram Hwayeon raised her voice, the nobles quickly became mice in front of the cat.

In that moment of silence, Ram Hwayeon brought a map from one side of the wall and laid it on the table before continuing.

“Moreover, refusing is not about simply ignoring it and throwing it away! It means that we have to make a counter-proposal based on their proposal.”

“A counter-proposal?”

The map showed Minis’ border and its surrounding cities. Hearing Marquis Hujak’s question, Ram Hwayeon pointed her finger at one place.

“Yes. Instead of the places they proposed, we have to take the city here. Two castles and this city. No, if a simple exchange is not possible, we don’t have to take a crappy castle like castle Van Cowl. Even if we have to give up everything, we have to get this city.”

“Explain.”


“Because it is a hub city where all their logistics were gathered during the war. It wasn’t just in charge of supplying the main army. We had to investigate the supply route of the enemy country and find a way to utilize that route or defend it, and we discovered this city in the process.”

Her didn’t just come simply out of spite or stubbornness.

The eldest daughter of the Ram Long group always had a basis as she pursued only the best with rationality and efficiency.

“It doesn’t matter if we do not take the castles as long as we get this one city. In any case, if a war breaks out, we can put an observation tower and a direct line to the capital, we would be able to spy on their movements. We will not be called greedy for asking for several cities, and in terms of practicality, this place can generate more income than two or three other cities, we need to get it unconditionally.”

She was more knowledgeable about the circumstances of each country in Middle Earth than the NPC nobles.

Listening to that explanation, the NPC nobles became speechless. They could refute neither logically nor emotionally. The marquis nodded his head.

“Good. I’ll tell his highness and ask him to come. We will refuse this proposal because Minis’ loss might be too great. They do not need to give up too many cities, we are satisfied with only this one city here…… that would be our counter-proposal!”

Fibiel would pretend to make concessions to Minis for the sake of the future alliance of humanity, but in reality, it was a proposal that would maximize Fibiel’s gains.

The marquis understood exactly what Ram Hwayeon was proposing.

“Right. Thank you, hujak-nim.”

She bowed her head toward the marquis until marquis Hujak left the conference room.

A faint smile hung on her face.

Justification and truth? It wasn’t just for that reason that she said this.

‘Hmm, I can’t give Ha Leeha such a crappy city as a gift after yelling at him so much. I have to give him this much to make him think about me again.’

It was also because she wanted to make an effort to keep her promise to a man.

‘By the way, why isn’t he connecting? He’s been logged out for quite a while, where is he and what is he doing?’

Then, looking at her friend’s window, she grumbled inwardly. If she had known where and what Leeha was doing, she would never have said such a thing to Minis.

***

“Wow, how did you know that curry is my favorite? You really have a good sense!”

“Cough, I think you would have liked ‘most’ food today, right?”


Four people sat around a table in a Japanese curry restaurant.

When Kijung overreacted, Nara rebutted. It was because she had a premonition that Kijung would say something that would praise her for choosing the restaurant, not just a curry restaurant.

“T-that-”

“Haha, Kijung is quite big but he has a cute side.”

“Eh, yes?”

Looking at Kijung, who was embarrassed, Bobae butted in. Unlike Kijung, who was surprised, Leeha was able to get a feel for Bobae’s personality to some extent.

‘If I think about it, she was like that in the palace too. She also asked if I had a girlfriend out of the blue. Maybe because she’s an archer, she doesn’t take any detours and is always a straight-shooter.’

Nara looked at Leeha’s face, which was looking at Bobae and Kijung, filled with thoughts.

“What would you like to eat? I will be the one paying today. Take your pick.”

“Yes? I don’t know what to say. We didn’t even order yet.”

“No. If you do it like that—”

“No, no! Then Leeha-ssi will pay for today.”

Even before ordering, Bobae intervened as she watched Shin Nara and Leeha fight over the bill.

Why did she suddenly butt in and asked Leeha to pay? Nara looked surprised.

“Bobae……?”

“Aigoo, you idiot. Leeha-ssi will pay for today so that you can pay for him next time. Isn’t that right, Leeha-ssi?”

“Cough! Yes, yes. Bobae-ssi is right.”

Bobae was definitely a straight shooter. Leeha had an ulterior motive for paying, it was to set up an appointment with Shin Nara in advance because he didn’t know if there would still be a next time after this meeting!

Kijung, who immediately realized its great meaning, clasped his hands and shook them with small movements from the side.

“……Oh……. Then, wouldn’t it be better if you talked about it in a whisper?”

After hearing Bobae’s words, Leeha thought about it for a while but soon understood. It was for their next meeting. However, what was the point of telling it to Nara in front of Leeha?

Isn’t that the same as confirming that Nara was anxious about not being able to meet Leeha?

Leeha thought it was ridiculous, Nara was embarrassed, and Kijung watched them with a smile.	

In fact, the two people, who were the main reason for the meeting today, were blushing, and the two people, who were only tagging along, giggled while enjoying themselves.

“Hmm, then what shall we do? If Leeha-ssi is paying, shouldn’t we eat something expensive…? I can’t decide if I should order something like this.”

Unlike Leeha and Nara, who were staring at the menu awkwardly, Bobae and Kijung looked at the menu separately.

“Then I, a friendly man, must step in.”

It was at that time that Kijung shook his shoulders.

Only Leeha sensed an ominous energy.

‘Kijung, you…… no way…’

Was he about to say nonsense that he usually says, here? The two women, who had no way of knowing Leeha’s worries, focused on Kijung.

“Huh? Why? What does being friendly have to do with it?”

And Bobae’s question became the trigger.

” I will be ‘friendly’, I will be ‘tender’.”

Baaaang—-!

Eventually, Kijung fired the bullet.

“……Kijung-ah…”

“Kijung-ssi, by any chance, isn’t that a gag?”

Leeha felt like the silence he was going through right now was similar to the time he laid down alone for sniping.

However, could it be said that he was lucky?

The goal of sniping is hitting the target accurately!

“Puhaha, what was that? What was that just now? Puheup! Kijung is really funny!”

“Oh, I-is that so?”

Was the damage so strong that it was enough to embarrass even the shooter?! Bobae laughed and teased Kijung.

“I love puns like that, one more, do another one.”

.(To be continued…)
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 “I-If you suddenly say it like that then- hmmm, do you know what a bee is called when it’s frozen to death?”

Click, Kijung reloaded with an uneasy look.

Leeha shook his head and sent a telepathic message.

‘Don’t do it, stop right there! There’s no way they would like it! She’s just pretending!’

“What is it? What is it?”

However, seeing Bobae’s bright eyes, Kijung couldn’t help but pull the trigger.

“Dead-bee.”

Baaaaaaang—!

In line with Kijung’s shooting, Leeha and Nara’s jaws gradually widened.

It wasn’t funny! It was overwhelmingly and devilishly unfunny!

By the time Leeha thought, “What the hell are you talking about?”

Bobae’s cheeks began to twitch and she burst out laughing.

Puhahahahaha! Bobae’s laugh was so loud that it attracted the attention of other customers in the restaurant. A dongsaeng that made unfunny jokes and a friend who laughed at those jokes.

Seeing that, Leeha and Nara shook their heads.

“We should just pretend we don’t know them.”

“Shall we move the table a little? Please pull the chair, Nara-ssi.”

A pair went on one side, and the other went to another side, the pairs got along pretty well.

He said it like that, but it was the result of Kijung’s efforts.

In that way, they were able to perfectly achieve the purpose of a 2:2 date while creating a friendly atmosphere.

Leeha and Nara talked a lot throughout the meal.


The one thing that Leeha admired the most during the conversation was that although Shin Nara learned that he was a soldier and a sniper, she never asked the reason why he was now in a wheelchair.

Although Leeha brought up the topic of paraplegia first, Nara did not delve too much into the issue.

‘Hmm, since we talked about the possibility of treatment, it should be okay.’

Maybe because Shin Nara could see people for who they really are, that such a thing didn’t matter to her. Whatever it may be, it was the day Leeha learned about the ‘real’ Shin Nara.

“It was a fun day, Leeha-ssi.”

The four of them enjoyed the indoor date, even though they did not move much from meal to coffee.

Because they thought that it would be too much to meet at noon and eat until dinner, they prepared to separate before dinner.

“We should pay for the coffee.”

Bobae, who pulled up her long padded zipper all the way up to create a penguin-like cuteness, wanted to pay for the coffee, however, Kijung proudly straightened his posture and hit his chest.

“What are you saying?! Leeha hyung paid for lunch and I will pay for the coffee! So that I know that you’ll call me next time too!”

“You want to go out again, Kijung-ssi?”

“Oh, what?”

Kijung was taken aback when Nara sneaked a joke on him. Seeing this, Bobae smiled heartily.

“Of course! If Kijung and I weren’t there, I think the two of you would have talked about marriage because you were so serious. Right, Kijung-ssi? Well, Nara likes y-”

“You, you, you- what- what are you saying, Bobae? Ahaha, why are you like that?”

And as expected, Bobae was really good at making fun of people. Nara hurriedly covered Bobae’s mouth.

What’s more, her behavior had subtle similarities to Kijung. Today, Bobae and Kijung became as close as Leeha and Nara were.

“Then, will I see you next time, Nara-ssi?”

“Of course! Do you think I would swindle you? I will pay next time, so Leeha-ssi will pick the location.”

“Okay! I will be your guide next time.”


As Leeha and Nara talked happily, Bobae, who escaped Nara’s grasp, spoke again.

“Hmm, hmm, hmm, you shouldn’t just talk about it- you should decide now.

‘Next time’ is a very scary word. If you don’t set it, you will not know when it will be.”

“Keuuuu, as expected of Bobae-ssi. Then when shall we meet?”

“Next week?… I don’t think it will work, because there’s training… and so the week after that?… Nara, do you have time the week after next? How about you Kijung?”

Bobae gave Nara a date and asked Kijung. There was no way Kijung would miss that.

“I will definitely come! Leeha hyung will also have time, so I will take him out.”

It seemed like Kijung and Bobae had already disregarded Leeha and Nara.

However, it wasn’t that Leeha didn’t like it at all. They were the 2 cupids that naturally made an appointment two weeks later.

“Then let’s meet in two weeks.”

“Actually, we will probably see each other a few more times in Middle Earth before that.”

As if trying to console Nara, Leeha answered.

How many? If they set their mind to it, wouldn’t it be possible to see each other within 70 days of Middle Earth’s time, which was equivalent to two weeks in reality?

Nara, who had just completed her calculation, showed a bright expression again.

“Heh, that’s right. Then, goodbye, Leeha-ssi! Ah, you too, Kijung-ssi!”

“Did you just think of me like an afterthought?! Huhu, thank you anyway! Goodbye, both of you! See you next time Bobae-ssi!”

“Goodbye, Kijung-ssi!”

Despite the distance, Bobae’s gaze was completely on Kijung.

Thinking that maybe the one who got the most today was Kijung, Leeha also turned his wheelchair.

“Let’s go, Kijung-ah.”


“Yes. Do you have another appointment, hyung?”

“No, I have to get to Middle Earth.”

“Hyung seems to be more addicted than I am.”

Kijung said it like he was worried, but it wasn’t just for the game.

It was the fact that Leeha was able to become confident in reality.

And it was because of Middle Earth that Leeha was able to meet people he likes.

‘I have to grow more. Even more.’

In order to become a man that she would not be ashamed of, Leeha made up his mind once more.

————–

“Dark promotion!”

A sullen voice came from Faust’s mouth.

Black mana began to cling to the bodies of the skeletons, who had been wearing poor equipment until now, and zombies, who had no equipment.

Their equipment was fortified, their bodies were enlarged, and they got stronger.

The reason that necromancers were scary to deal with was that their undead summons can immediately be replenished as soon as the undead in front are destroyed.

Faust, who was already strong, became even stronger with Bluebeard’s power.

“Damn it, stop! It’s not the undead army that we have to deal with! We have to deal with the necromancer behind them!”

“But we couldn’t see it! T-there’s so many undead, I can’t figure out how many necromancers there are!”

“What about magic? You still haven’t recovered?!”

“It’s impossible, the mana is blocked!”

“Chimera- the chimeras have breached the siiiiiiiide—-!”

Grrrrrrrr…. Grrrrrrrr, grrrrrrrrr…..

Additionally, the town doesn’t only have one entrance.

The power of ordinary users and guards was not enough to block Faust’s strengthened undead and chimeras from pushing through.

The users fiercely resisted, but in the end, they were wiped out in less than an hour.

“Phew……. It’s over, Count-nim.”

“It took you 53 minutes, so it was close.”

“B-But, it is within an hour as you ordered-”

“Keulkeul, I’m saying you did a good job.”

Bluebeard, who did not participate in the battle and watched from behind, patted Faust’s shoulder.

The quest completion window and rewards appeared in front of the Lizardia. The corners of his mouth moved upward.

‘The speed of leveling is amazing. At this rate, I can move in front of Chiyou soon. No, no. If my level rises too quickly, some people from the other side might have some doubts, hmmm…. Still, the reward is too good.’

Faust smiled and Bluebeard hit him on the head with his cane.

“What are you thinking about?”

“I was thinking about how to better serve the count.”

“Kilkil, anyways, You alone is not enough.”

“What?”

Bluebeard sighed, ignoring Faust’s question.

“Phew……. Even though I went all over the continent, they are nowhere to be found.”

“What…… are you talking about?”

“Those dimwitted guys… They were not able to hide as well as I did and really crossed over. Tsk, I guess I’ll have to take a leap in the end.”

What was he talking about? Faust shook his head, but couldn’t understand what Bluebeard was saying.

“Faust.”

“Yes, Count-nim.”

“I have to go somewhere.”

“It’s always like that… don’t you go around all the time?”

“This time is different. I have to go a little further this time. Other than that, I need to make sure that the annoying dung fly can’t find my tracks.”

Shwaaaak-!

A quest window appeared in front of Faust. Bluebeard did not stop talking as Faust read quickly.

“So you have to move. No, not just you. Gather those who are ruled by demonic power. And make this continent chaotic. Burn cities, destroy castles, and throw humans as chimera food. I will give you the authority to control the chimeras. I’ll make sure that the noble demons from Fibiel would also follow your actions.”

“A-are you sure? Then, as a matter of fact-”

“Do what you have been doing so far… I’ll do everything I can to make sure you don’t get caught being my agent, but they’ll be relentless in their pursuit, can you handle it?”

Bluebeard grinned and asked.

Can he handle it? Faust wanted to let out a roar of joy while looking at the quest window.

Faust knelt down with one knee and bowed.

It was a scene that seemed to be majestic at first glance, but Bluebeard just laughed and hit Faust in the head with his cane. It was Faust’s reward for accepting the quest.

Kuioooong-! At the cost of one hit, Faust’s level rose.

His stat points increased.

And he got a skill.

A new community window also popped up. Of course, there were conditions. And Faust made a promise to abide by that condition no matter what.

“Go quickly and give them a hard time.”

“Yes!”

—–

“Hmm, I like Middle Earth too.”

Leeha liked the feeling he felt when he rubbed his knee and was looking forward to meeting someone like this in real life.

They virtually spent a day preparing for the 2:2 date, and they also spent a day on the date itself.

Therefore, as soon as he got home, Leeha quickly logged on to Middle Earth, because it had already been 8 Middle earth days after he had logged out.

‘Did Nara-sshi get home yet?’

Ram Hwayeon: Where have you been?! Where are you right now? I can’t see you in my friend’s window.

‘-huh?’

He had just logged in and was checking the friend’s windows when Leeha heard a whisper.

With this familiarity of tumbling and shooting, Leeha replied to Ram Hwayeon with a smile.

Leeha: I also have a private life, you know? I went out for a bit. Why?

Ram Hwayeon: What do you mean why? Are you asking why I contacted you? I contacted you because there was a new reply from Minis and it seems that a peace treaty will be signed soon. You have a quest, right?

Leeha: That’s right, I have a quest. Huh, there’s already only a week left. How did it go?

Ram Hwayeon: Ugh! I really can’t do anything if I don’t take care of you. It’s over. As soon as you finish your business, come to the palace. Let me explain.

Leeha had received a quest from Browless.

It was to persuade the opposing nobles to rush to a peace treaty.

Ram Hwayeon had told Leeha to trust only in her, and just by listening to Ram Hwayeon’s proud voice, Leeha was able to predict the outcome.

.(To be continued…)
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 ‘She really is a great woman…’

Perhaps, once Leeha arrived at the palace, the persuasion rate would immediately rise and the quest would be completed.

Leeha: Do I need to get an explanation?

Ram Hwayeon: Well, it doesn’t matter if you hear it, but…… the atmosphere in Minis has been unusual recently. The number of cities and castles being destroyed also increased rapidly, and it was said that chimera and undead legion-level troops were seen. Anyway, Ha Leeha, shouldn’t you protect the city you are going to get before it gets destroyed?

Of course, the unknown source of chaos, that even Ram Hwayeon did not know about, was Faust. Having obtained the authority to control the chimeras, he was active in the Minis Kingdom.

When Faust followed Bluebeard, he was alone, but not now. The number of users who went together with chimeras increased by a few more people besides Faust.

It was because, among the outsiders, Faust had selected trustworthy and competent professionals and assigned them with the authority given to him by Bluebeard.

Of course, Leeha and Ram Hwayeon were completely unaware of that. At best, they thought about the correlation between Bluebeard and the chimeras.

Leeha: Hmm……okay. I’ll go to the palace as early as today, or maybe tomorrow.

Ram Hwayeon: Call me as soon as you arrive.

After ending the conversation with Ram Hwayeon, Leeha thought that he should hurry up with the maintenance.

‘If it’s maintenance, it means taking care of my items, but that is the problem. Well, it’s good that I have already skimmed off the surface of Bahamut’s lair.’

He just needed to get pieces of equipment from other lairs and get something that is hard to find from Bahamut’s lair. And quickly go to the royal palace and complete Browless’ quest! This was Leeha’s plan.

‘Browless’ quest reward is a linked quest. It will directly lead to the Signing of the Peace Treaty – 2. Even that doesn’t seem like much…’ Speaking of Signing the Peace Treaty, what did Leeha need to do? Wouldn’t it be over when the documents have been processed, and the representatives went out and check the conditions and seal them? After all, there was a high chance that the next quest would be about waiting for a while.

‘And the city would be rewarded to me? Hueheu, if I get it, how much-’

“What are you thinking that makes you laugh so hard.”

“Ah, Bahamut-nim.”

Just as he was quickly organizing his thoughts, an old man in a white robe approached Leeha with a smile. Leeha had logged out of Bahamut’s lair.

“Have you chosen your gift?”

“Not yet…… I couldn’t choose. Can I look around a bit more and think about it?”


“Of course. Blaugrunn’s lair is also good. But Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair is said to be visited by chromatic younglings. You’d better go and see it before something you want disappears.”

“Chromatic dragons?”

“That’s right. Those who have just become accustomed to handling mana are greedy…”

Although they had publicly declared that they have severed ties with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, we cannot do anything about their personal relationship.

After confirming Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s death, the immature(?) dragonlings were stealing items from his lair.

‘Minis’ side is full of chimeras, but our side doesn’t have much time either… In other words, there is an unseen time limit! I can get five items from the Ancient Dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. It means that it should be much more efficient than taking three items from Blaugrunn’s lair. No, but looking at it, it seems the operator hates me.’

It seems like Middle Earth was only looking for a chance to steal the advantage of users, and furthermore, and it always seemed like the game was against Leeha, so such complaints were inevitable. Of course, users had a different opinion, because it looked like Middle Earth was giving him preferential treatment.

“Do I have to go alone to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair?”

“I can send you there.”

“Can you go with-”

“Haha. Do you want to see a dragon race war?”

“No, no. That isn’t the case.”

If the king of metal dragons appeared at the lair of chromatic dragons, an all-out war may unfold. It would also be difficult for Bailephus, who actively contributed to killing Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, to come with him.

If he had a dragon ‘partner’, Leeha could proudly bring it, but in the end, it meant that he had to go to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair alone.

Leeha opened the chamber to check the magazine, and Kijung hadn’t logged in yet. However, it was too risky to invite anyone to go with him.

Bahamut smiled upon seeing Leeha’s reaction. Seeing the old man with an expectant expression, Leeha tilted his head.

“Did you say they were chromatic younglings?”

“That’s what I said.”

“Phew, phew…”

“Are you going right away?”


“I have to take care of my items.”

More than anything, Leeha wanted to test himself. How much power did Bahamut’s blessing and the various rewards and achievements give? He stored the location of Bahamut’s lair in the crystal ball first. Then he took out a magazine and inserted it into the Black Bass.

“Please send my there, Bahamut-nim.”

“Okay. It’s about 700m away from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair. You probably know where to go.”

“Under-”

Shoo-!

Before he could finish answering, Leeha’s location had already changed He immediately opened the map, but his figure was not marked anywhere. It meant that Leeha was currently in a place that has not been explored and recorded on the map yet. In an unexplored land, Leeha went to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair with another expectation. A cave that could be seen on the mountainside waited for Leeha from a distance.

‘Is it because Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh is dead? It doesn’t feel like it has a barrier at all.’

Even though he was already on the base of the mountain Leeha didn’t feel the same lukewarm energy he felt from Blaugrunn’s lair in the past. Recalling the strange feeling of mana spreading in the air completely covering him, Leeha thought of the dragon heart that could have become his ‘partner’.

‘He looked very nice. He had an innocent face and he also had lightning magic system. He was also an adult-class, so he won’t be defeated by most monsters or users. Heck, if he really became my partner, I could even win against Alexander!’

Blaugrunn could be the vanguard with his slender body. He could also cause the enemy to be caught off guard, and even if they attacked with all their might, there won’t be much damage to the dragon. Blaugrunn would paralyze the enemy while calmly receiving the enemy’s attacks. In that situation, where they couldn’t move while getting electrocuted with bzzt, bzzt sound, Leeha would look over the scope and pull the trigger.

Bang-!

The enemy’s head would be pierced and they would die. And use the ‘appear’ skill to get to his partner in an instant. He would have freedom of movement and escape, and he could have boasted the perfect breathing attack.

“Ugh, why did you have to die, blaugrun? Should I even say that we got lucky because we were able to save your heart? Ah, come to think of it, it must have been completed in Hell Anvil now.”

The division of Blaugrunn’s dragon heart.

Not even 10% of the whole dragon heart was used for the bullets to catch Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. In fact, over 90%, virtually all of the Dragon Heart’s power, was commissioned to Bottleneck by Leeha.

‘I brought Orichalcum, so that’s probably almost done. Damn it!! Is it a good or bad thing?! I had to come before the chimeras go wild-’

“Die, ajussi Kuzi’s enemy!”

“Iyaaaaaaap-!”

“Huh?”


At the neck of the road leading to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair, two people suddenly jumped out from behind a huge tree trunk. Had they been hiding all this time? However, Leeha was not very nervous. To be more precise, it was more like two kids.

“W-what are these guys?”

Swiiik-!

A kid with white hair that was inappropriate for his age swung a sword. It was fiercer than it looked, but it was ridiculous compared to Czar that Leeha had dealt with so far. As Leeha lightly dodged, Koma who swung his sword wide staggered, not even holding his center of gravity properly.

“Uh, why- why doesn’t the attack work?”

The kid who wielded the sword himself looked as if something did not make sense.

“What the hell is this?”

Tsk tsk, while Leeha clicked his tongue, a green-haired kid appeared behind the white-haired kid and thrust his dagger.

“Huaaaap!”

Chupapat-!

As expected, the speed was quite fast, but compared to Midnight Circus, it was lacking. No, it was a situation where the attack the kids aimed for did not go according to plan. Leeha avoided the attacks of the two children and pulled the bolt in a natural motion.

Click-!

In the past, he would have thought that some kids suddenly attacked, but now, Leeha wasn’t so lax.

“A white dragon and a green dragon?”

Leeha knew full well that dragons could polymorph into humans.

“Euk……. As expected of the dragon slayer!”

“You killed Kuzi-ajussi! You came to steal his items, like a thief!”

The children gritted their teeth and screamed at Leeha. That cry alone was already a sufficient answer.

“Steal? What are you talking about? I’ve only come to get what the dragon I killed left behind. You kids are-”

“So noisy! Thief! They say that metal bastards are hypocrites and thieves!”

“And how did you neutralize our attacks?! It’s impossible to do that without magic except for those metal-”

Looking at the chattering kids, Leeha sighed. Leeha pulled the trigger thinking that there was no better way to make them quiet.

Baaaaang ——-!

The muzzle was slightly higher than the kids, and they might have felt ‘something invisible’ pass over their heads, and an additional fear effect made the two children freeze at the same time. Leeha pulled the bolt again and made a scary expression.	’

“Hey. What class are you?”

“…….”

“What class are you? You don’t look like adult-class.”

As Leeha lowered the muzzle and aimed at the kids, the white-haired kid opened his mouth. While the green-haired kid hiccuped.

“J-Juvenile-class.”

“This cheeky little kid. Are you short on words?”

Then Leeha moved his index finger…… click! As he did that, the white-haired kid’s posture stiffened.

“Juve-juvenile-class! … Sir.”

“You have yet to reach adult-class?”

“……Yes sir.”

The white-haired kid stared at Leeha with tears welling up in him. However, unlike his expression, respectful words came out of his mouth. Leeha knew that one was a white dragon and another was a green dragon. He also knew that adult-class dragons were at least 1000 years old. Dragons have a ridiculously long unit of time, so if they were youths, they should be at least 500 years old. However, he couldn’t pull the trigger toward the two kids.

‘Damn it, I would have preferred if they were in their dragon form…’

They were in human form and looked most like around the age of 12. How could he pull the trigger on the heads of the kids who were trying to hold back their tears with extremely resentful expressions? It wasn’t an easy decision for Leeha, who had slaughtered Minis users, destroyed Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s dragon heart, and made an infamous(?) name in the war.

Eventually, Leeha decided to change directions. He might be able to get an achievement like Dragon Slayer- Juvenile. And although stats were important, in the current situation, it was against Leeha’s nature to pull the trigger toward children.

“You’re still so young, but you came into someone else’s lair to steal, didn’t you?”

As expected, children must be properly educated and disciplined.

.(To be continued…)
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 “Heek, stealing?! It’s you, hiiek, -”

“You?”

The green-haired kid gritted his teeth and shouted at Leeha, but as soon as the rifle’s muzzle pointed at him, he immediately fell silent.

He didn’t just shut up, even his hiccups stopped.

“……Ajussi.”

“Ajussi?”

“Then what do we call you!”

“Don’t you have a temper?”

Leeha deliberately hit the magazine once more and the bolt made a clicking sound. It was an action that had nothing to do with shooting, but there was no way the young dragons would know that.

“……No, sir.”

The dragon younglings lowered their heads while looking at Leeha.

“If you want, you can call me samchon- no, never mind. There’s no point in calling me that.”

Leeha would have felt bad hearing the word samchon from 500 years old dragons, so Leeha raised his voice for his original purpose.

“You cheeky little brats, oh! Is that what your parents taught you? Did they tell you to take items from a dead dragon’s lair? Even if you’re chromatic dragons, don’t you have moral education? Should I go and meet your parents?”

In fact, he would not be able to do anything when he met them. There’s nothing else that they could do aside from fighting. In fact, it wouldn’t even be called a fight. Perhaps Leeha himself would die after getting hit a few times.

“Don’t curse our parents!”

“That’s what you’re doing kid. When you guys do this kind of stuff, you’re putting shit on your parent’s faces. Did you know? How sad your mother would be if she found out? Juvenile-class dragons going to a dead dragon’s lair to steal. Even getting caught by a human and getting scolded like this.”

“Eugh…..”

Teardrops fell from the white-haired kid’s eyes. The green-haired kid also had a gloomy expression. Leeha gave the younglings some time to reflect on themselves.

’


‘Is the settings that dragons live long lives and are intelligent all bullshit? It looks like they are stupider than humans because of their slow growth. These bastards are over 500 years old but still sit down and cry because they got scolded by me…’

There was no way a juvenile-class dragon could be weaker than a human. And their thoughts couldn’t be that shallow. The reason Leeha could think like this was all because of the achievements and rewards he had earned.

『Dragon Slayer’s Aura』

Description: All dragons, regardless if metal or chromatic can feel your aura, who killed an ancient dragon.

If they are hostile brave adults, curious juveniles, and ignorant hatchlings will be crushed by your spirit.

You are the only one who killed an ancient dragon.

Effect: Stats of all hostile adult-class dragons -40%, stats of all hostile juvenile-class dragons -50%, stats of all hostile hatchling-class dragons -60%

Leeha had an active buff that always reduced all enemies’ physical/mental abilities by 50%.

It was a buff that only applies to dragons, so it looked useless to ordinary users, but it was perfect for Leeha. He took a moment to organize his thoughts while watching the young dragons shedding tears. Sending them back alive meant nothing to Leeha because he already had more than -200% intimacy with the chromatic dragons.

Even if he let the 2 kids live and win their favor, it won’t change much. Then what could he do? What can Leeha gain from the dragons that have entered Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair?

‘Ah…right. Didn’t they enter?’

Fortunately, they were only juvenile-class now, there was no guarantee that only juvenile-class will go to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair.

What if it was an adult-class, or worst of all, an ancient-class? Even with the dragon slayer buff, it would be too much to handle for Leeha.

In other words, he could not stay at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair for too long! What would be the fastest way to fill that handicap?

“How good was it that you tried to snuckto the lair like this?”

It was to use these kids who had already searched for treasures in the lair.

“We haven’t entered it yet! It is said that Kuzi-ajussi has more treasures than other lairs, so we just came to take a look!”

“A lot of treasures? What does it have? It’s not like your parents don’t have items in your lair. Ah, are your parents poor? Is that why you came to someone else’s lair and are tried to steal?”

“It’s not like that!”

“Our treasure trove is huge!”


The two dragons retorted at the same time-! and screamed.

Unable to bear the resentment, the white-haired dragon started talking again.

“You don’t even know! Unlike normal dragons, dragons that do illegal things like ajussi might have an 『Easter Egg』, my mom-”

“Hey, hey! Quiet!”

The green-haired kid quickly covered the white-haired kid’s mouth, but it was too late. It was enough that the keywords reached his ears.

“Heuheu…… Kids? Can you explain what that 『Easter Egg』 is? No, you can explain as we go along. It would be better to tell me about it when we are looking at the real thing. Right?”

Leeha did not need their consent.

With the Black Bass’ muzzle pointed down, Leeha headed toward Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair with two little dragons at the fore.

They were simply hostages that will be used as item identifiers, and furthermore, ensure Leeha’s safety.

The two juvenile-class dragons had no choice but to follow Leeha’s instructions. In order to survive.

“So, you looked for it, but you didn’t see the 『Easter Egg』?”

“Yes……. I don’t think anyone took it…. I wonder if Kuzi-ajussi didn’t have it either- sir.”

“What about its functionality?”

“I don’t know. I only heard what my parents said. So I thought it would be here, and we came to see it.”

Was it because he was sad that he had to be respectful to Leeha? The white dragon responded by kicking an item in front of him.

‘Hmm, they don’t appear to be lying… Kkub. Even dragons acknowledge its rarity, an item like that would be a real treasure.’

Because he had already heard about the existence of the item called 『Easter Egg』.

The items scattered in Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair did not catch Leeha’s attention.

“Then what’s the next best thing? What would you guys choose from here?”

“Why do we have to tell you that? Ajussi is a complete thief. Killing Kuzi-ajussi isn’t enough, now you are trying to rob an ownerless house-”


Click-!

Leeha hit the Black Bass’ magazine with his palm again.

The cold, metallic sound echoed from the confined lair and grew louder.

“Kids? Do you really…… want me to tell you?”

“N-No.”

Leeha smiled with an innocent smile and pointed the Black Bass at them. The dragons shook their heads desperately and immediately scattered around.

“It’s not that I don’t have an eye for items either

. If you don’t choose the right words when talking to me, you won’t be able to see your parents starting today~ understand?”

“……He’s like the devil. Saying something like-”

“What did you say, brat?”

“No, sir!? I didn’t say anything.”

The white dragon muttered while looking through the piles of items that were not organized, but immediately took an immediate attitude. Leeha looked at them like a slave guard holding a whip and smiled. What would they have said if Kijung or someone else was was next to him?

They would have told him that they couldn’t kill the juvenile-class dragons because they were pitiful, and them criticize Leeha for intimidating and extorting them.

‘They should be thankful that I spared their lives. Anyway, they’re the ones who tried to ambush me, so they should accept this amount of trouble.’

While sending the dragons to select five good items, Leeha did not let go of the idea of the 『Easter Egg』.

‘Easter egg? Are they talking about easter eggs(부활절 달걀)? Hmmm, I don’t think it’s necessary to put in a religious meaning. In ordinary games, you could think of it as a hidden piece like a surprise event……’

However, it was different in Middle Earth.

Neither the interpretation of the easter egg nor the interpretation of the surprise event came to Leeha.

‘Something like an egg……. Besides, normal dragons would have never seen it…… it means that it is so rare that even among chromatic, only dragons at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s level, which is close to the strongest among the ancient-class, could have gotten it. If it’s the parents of juvenile-class dragons, they should at least be adult or ancient-cl- huh?’

As Leeha thought about the explanation, lightning struck his head.

Egg?

A dragon as old or older than Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh?

A rare treasure that did not have many?

“Ohhh?”

He saw one! He clearly saw one! Besides, he did not confirm its name!

“Kids! Kids! Hurry up and get the items!”

“It’s not easy because the lair is wide. How can it be easy to pick up something that can be sold to humans at a high price-”

“These kids talk a lot! Hurry! If you don’t get the items in the next ten minutes, I will take care of you!”

He wanted to leave as soon as possible.

There are many treasures in the lair, so there should(?) be legendary equipment as well. Rather than those things, Leeha wanted to go to the place where the ‘real’ treasure was.

And Leeha knew just the place.

“Here-”

“Hmm, let’s see.”

Still, he couldn’t help but do a thorough inspection.

Leeha checked the options of the items picked up by the white-haired and green-haired kids. As expected, there were five items. All legendary. There were also random weapons.

‘Three one-handed swords, one two-handed sword, and one wand. They certainly understood what it meant when I said ‘items that are likely to be popular with humans.’

The total count of legendary-rank items currently auctioned in the auction house did not exceed five. However, Leeha can now release five legendary items by himself.

In other words, it meant that he had the power to disrupt the market, but even that was not very satisfactory to Leeha.

After all, they are not things that Leeha can use anyway.

“Isn’t there a shield or something that can block dragon breath?”

“Hmmp, do you think that it is that easy to block? Humans are wea-”

“Ah, alright. If it’s not something like that, it would be useless. Okay, you kids can go now.”

“Euugh…”

The white dragon’s body trembled. It was a disgrace that they had never received anywhere other than their parents after living for over 500 years.

“What are you doing? Hurry up. Ah! Right.”

“Why?! ……Sir!”

“I spared your life, shouldn’t you say thank you? Dragons don’t even have the minimum etiquette. Tell me your names.”

“……Shoblanc.”

“Greenvogel.”

“The white one is Shoblanc, and the green one is Greenvogel. Your names are really hard to pronounce. Well, alright. Leave quickly.”

Leeha hit the white and green dragons with the muzzle of the Black Bass.

“Why me! ……Sir!”

“I won’t do anything while you leave. Hurry!”

They were not able to resist Leeha. The dragons showed their back to Leeha with their lips tightly closed and expressions full of resentment.

“Anyway, thank you, kids. Don’t try to live your life too easily next time! It takes effort, effort. Okay? You’re getting punished like this because you are trying to steal items from adults. Even so, since I was the one who caught you, you ended up lightly-”

Sssk-!

After activating his crystal ball, Leeha spat out words like an old rapper for 10 seconds.

Towards dragons who were over 500 years old.

“Euuuugh……!”

“Euuuuugh…… I will never forget you, dragon slayer Ha Leeha…”

A new feeling burned in the hearts of the two juvenile-class dragons after they felt that Leeha had disappeared.

.(To be continued…)

Samchon and Ajussi – they both mean ajussi but samchon is used for family members while ajussi is used for strangers.

The easter egg mentioned by the kids is 『이스터 에그』(isteo egu)and the one Leeha mentioned is 『부활절 달걀』(buhalchong dalgyal)
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 “Lord Bahamut!”

“Hmm? You’re already here?”

As soon as Leeha entered Bahamut’s lair, he called him immediately and an old man in a white robe, who he had not seen just a moment ago, stood in front of Leeha before he knew it.

He was like a swift god that could not be followed by the naked eye, the king of metal dragons had a speed comparable to that of the Demon King’s Fragment.

“Wah…… ah, no. treasure trove! I want to enter your treasure trove.”

“You just went to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair, now you want to go to my treasure trove?”

“Yes!”

“Did anything happen in the lair?”

“That- nothing happened, can I see your treasure trove first? And then I’ll tell you later. Anyway, nothing special happened.”

Nothing happened except for the two juvenile dragons he teased. At the moment, the most important thing for Leeha was to check Bahamut’s treasure trove.

The old man smiled kindly and snapped his fingers.

Ttak-!

That sound answered Leeha’s request.	

‘Okay!’

Leeha’s body moved to the treasure trove in an instant.

It definitely felt bigger than Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s treasure trove. Legendary items scattered like grains of sand on the beach, but such items did not reach Leeha’s eyes.

“Where did you go, ostrich egg, ostrich egg-”

Leeha searched the surroundings, kicking off the gold coins that had been laid instead of tiles.

The very item that he had stepped on and almost slipped on upon entering this place, was the only item that was one of a kind in the vast treasure trove.

The item was the most similar to the description he heard from the juvenile-class dragons!


“Found you!”

Leeha found and picked up the egg half-buried among the gold coins. And immediately checked its description.

『Mythical Easter Egg』

Effect: Rebirth of a life form whose life activity had completely stopped.

Description: An egg containing divine powers. By combining the divine energy that only god can have with the mana of a deceased creature, the corresponding creature can be reborn.

(This item disappears after 1 use.)

“Oh, ohhhhh. Oh-!”

『Easter Egg』.

It really was that item! Rather than thinking, the adjective attached in front caught Leeha’s eyes first.

‘Mythical? This surely…’

It was a level higher than legendary-grade! Leeha’s eyes and head spun.

Crude-Normal-Elite-Rare-Heroic-Legendary.

Mythic-grade was not on the list of known items. Most importantly, the word God was not attached anywhere.

Moreover, what were the effects and explanations?

‘It isn’t the same concept as Bailephus did with the temporary resurrection.’ What did it mean to be fully reborn? Terms that could only be used in a dictionary were written in the effect column, but the meaning felt more ambiguous.

What did it mean when it was described as life activities were completely stopped?

‘The important thing is that it is not for users. Users who could revive wouldn’t need it anyway. Can it prevent level-down when dead rankers are resurrected? No, even with that kind of use, it shouldn’t be wasted like that. If it really was a mythical item that is above legendary. Ultimately, the only viable target is an NPC-’

What was the scope? What if the NPC’s corpse had already disappeared? Was it still possible? Or should it be used while the corpse is gray?

‘Combine with the dead creature’s mana – what could it be talking about? Would the explanation be that simple? Or did it mean that there must be something like a memento used by the deceased creature in life?’

Middle Earth’s unkind explanation alone did not make sense, so Leeha could not select easily.


Leeha was not sure if an item that was a higher grade than a legendary-grade item was necessary for him. Because he wasn’t sure about the explanation.

‘What can I do with this? Sell? No, even if I sell just the items from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair, I could secure some cash. Eugh, it may be the first mythical-grade item in Middle Earth, but it has a strange effect! Should I use it on Headmaster Browless when he dies?’

Because one of the conditions for failure was Browless’ death.

Perhaps if I could prevent it once? Of course, that was also a good method, but if it’s above legend-grade, one should weigh the life of Browless with the value of the item!

‘If not, I could give up the 『Easter Egg』 and find another item. Now that I know there’s a mythic-grade, even weapons, and other equipment can be mythic-grade as well. If there is such a thing, it would have more destructive power than Black Bass.’

What if it was something like a mythic-grade musket?

Leeha remembered the name 『Arcane Sniper』 for a moment. Wouldn’t the person who held such a title be worthy of a mythic-grade musket? What if there is only one such item? Leeha, who already had an overwhelming growth rate, would be like a tiger growing wings.

“Cough…… hmmm……”

Django, django. What should he do? Leeha could only pick one item from Bahamut’s treasure trove, only one!

Leeha wandered back and forth through Bahamut’s treasure trove with the 『Easter Egg』. It was a waste to give up, however, he had nothing to use it on after picking it. It looked like an egg, but it was used for a different purpose!

‘Think, Ha Leeha. Remember. Middle Earth doesn’t just make items. Unfortunately, I don’t have anywhere to use-’

…There was…….

After wandering around and grunting for a while, a certain scenario came to Leeha’s mind.

However, it was a gamble.

The chance of success was completely unknown.

Could he use it? Would it work?

He only had one chance!

He might not be able to see another mythic-grade item across Middle Earth again. No, actually, it had not been seen until now!

It may or may not be possible for another mythic-grade item to appear again in the first place.

Then, should he try? His chance to get an item from Bahamut’s Lair?!


“……Bahamut-nim! Here, I have chosen!”

Baang—-!

The sniper finally pulled the trigger.

『Mythical Easter Egg has been obtained.』

Bahamut stared blankly at Leeha holding the 『Easter Egg』.

The usual expression of a smiling old man had changed.

“Indeed……. Did the humans call you 『Bullseye』?”

“What?”

“You made a choice worthy of your nickname. You hit it accurately.”

His expression was closer to admiration rather than surprise.

Bahamut nodded as he looked at the Easter Egg Leeha was holding, like a viewer who saw something good.

Leeha did not care much about how the King of Metal Dragons knew about his attribute as a successor of the Three Musketeers, nor what it meant when he said ‘Hit’.

However, he was certain about one thing.

‘I chose well.’

That his choice was not wrong.

It means that the value of the easter egg was higher than what he could possibly imagine.

“This mythical easter egg……. Is it more valuable than a legendary-grade item?”

“Of course. Its level of divinity is different from legendary-grade items.”

Leeha made an expression of half joy and half sadness.

He was joyous that he confirmed that there was indeed a higher grade than legend, and sad because of the possibility that there would be another myth-grade item.

“Ho, do you have any mythical-grade equipment in the warehouse? Whether it’s a sword or shield-”

“Hahaha, I went through a lot of humans in my life until I became an ancient wyrm. Some became heroes, and some became beggars. I have seen many people, but they have one thing in common.”

“What? What…… is it?”

What was he talking about all of a sudden? Leeha was taken aback by the sudden question, but he still listened to Bahamut’s words.

“It is that humans consider other people’s rice cakes to be better. So do you know what the difference is?”

When Bahamut grinned and looked at Leeha, Leeha understood Bahamut’s meaning.

“It is the difference between people who are able to eat their own rice cakes even when other people’s rice cakes look bigger, and people who couldn’t even properly eat their rice cakes because they only cared about other people’s rice cakes, right?”

“As expected, Bailephus picked the right person.”

Whether there was another mythic-grade item in Bahamut’s lair or not was not important. It was what Bahamut wanted Leeha to know.

“Okay. Then may I ask you how to use it?”

“It is how it was described.”

“You mean it is as it is described?”

“That’s right. You only need the creature’s leftover mana. Items with their mana in it would not be destroyed, so you don’t have to worry.”

Bahamut answered with a smile, and Leeha responded with a smile.

As expected, the king of metal dragons, Bahamut, was already saying that he knew why Leeha chose the 『Easter Egg』 and where he was going to use it.

“Thank you, lord.”

“I want to say thank you for choosing the Easter Egg.”

“Then, see you next time.”

“Come often, think of it as visiting your grandfather’s house.”

“Hmm, when I visit grandma and grandpa’s house, they say that their grandchild is cute and give me things.”

“That’s what grandmas usually do. But I don’t have a wife.”

Leeha also couldn’t help but laugh when he heard Bahamut’s humorous response to his humorous aegyo asking for more items.

Their intimacy definitely exceeded 100%.

“Haha, I understand! Then, I will really see you next time!”

“Right, take care of yourself.”

Leeha activated his crystal ball. Leeha’s next destination was obvious.

♦ * *

“Bottleneck-ssi!”

“Are you here to urge me again? Tsk, you’re acting as if I owe you something! Items don’t just appear overnight-”

As soon as he heard Leeha’s voice, Bottleneck got fed up.

They still stayed at the new smithy because the elders had not decided yet if they would be allowed to move back to Hell Anvil.

“Ah, ah, I am not here to urge you today. Don’t worry! I am not here to ask about the progress, and I am also not here to ask for anything!”

“Huh? Then what are you here for?”

“I came to see you.”

“Me?”

Even when they said something harsh, Leeha smiled as Bottleneck’s expression brightened a little.

“Huh? What did you say? Why would I want to see you? Where is the item I gave you? Is it inside?”

And that expression was crushed in an instant.

After passing through and entering the smithy, Leeha was able to find the item he wanted quickly.

“This is it……”

“Ah, I haven’t finished that yet! First of all, the rough process had been completed, but the deadline is still-”

“No, I’m not going to use it. It’s because of this energy source.”

Soft light leaked from the item hanging on the hanger for work. Looking at the item, Leeha pulled out the easter egg from his bag.

“What is that?”

“Easter Egg. Do you know about it?”

“……Easter Egg?”

Bottleneck tilted his head for a moment. He stayed that way, then stiffened for a moment, and then was shocked.

After a while, Bottleneck screamed louder than he had ever screamed before.

“Easter Egg!”

Rather, what surprised him was Leeha.

“Do you know what it is??”

“R-r-resurrection Egg! Are you talking about that easter egg!? You-”

(To be continued…)

Aegyo – based on my understanding, it means acting cute. The easter egg mentioned by the kids is 『이스터 에그』(isteo egu)and the one Leeha mentions is 『부활절 달걀』(buhalchong dalgyal)

In this case, Leeha is thinking of easter where Christians believe tht is is the ressurection of Jesus.
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 “Oh, you know what it is? It seems like Bottleneck-ajussi knows about everything, but did not tell me about it.”

“No- that…… I heard stories about it when I was young, but it was like a myth- it really existed? Where did you get it?”

“Hehe, where I got it from is a secret. I don’t know where you heard it from, but you should be honored. We will now check its effect together.”

Somewhere at the base of Adamantir mountain, an item that had never been seen since the beginning of Middle Earth was being activated by Leeha’s hands.

『Select an item containing the mana of the rebirth target.』

‘As expected……’

Leeha slowly approached the item on the work hanger.

It was something that Leeha left Bottleneck for a while, asking him to make it into an item, 『Blaugrunn’s Dragon Heart』 emitted soft light.

『Rebirth Target: Bronze Dragon ‘Blaugrunn’』

『Click OK to continue.』

It was the reason why the King of Metal Dragons expressed gratitude to Leeha.

He could bring the dead back to life.

No, maybe it was because he considered the possibility of this method from the very beginning, so he chose Blaugrunn as his partner.

Like the operator of Middle Earth, Bahamut perfectly painted the bigger picture.

‘OK.’

Hwaaaaa

“Oh, ohhhh, really- it really is a resurrection egg. Oh my god! Hey, beard Brothers! Hurry up and look!”

Seeing the divine light emanating from the Easter Egg, Bottleneck almost shed tears.

And Leeha, barely suppressing his pounding heart, examined the easter egg he was holding while waiting for the bronze dragon ‘Blaugrunn’, a handsome man in his early to mid-twenties who would become his dragon partner in the future.

“Oh my goodness, where did you get something that only the Dragon Lord might have?”


“Shh! The egg cracked!”

The older hyung of the Beard Brothers tapped Leeha’s arm and asked, but the younger hyung, who was concentrating on the easter egg, blocked the older hyung’s mouth.

Leeha, who was about to boast that it had really been given by the dragon lord, missed the opportunity to say so.

‘But would he be resurrected like this?”

Crack- crack-!

Leeha put the 『Easter Egg』 on the floor after it started cracking.

Bottleneck, beard Brothers, and Leeha focused on the small egg through which the light leaked. And they couldn’t help but be curious.

‘Will it be an adult-class dragon? Born from that egg?’

Leeha had thought that a handsome Blaugrunn would arise out of thin air with a shaaaa~ sound like magic.

But what was happening?

Like an egg hatching, the surface of the easter egg began to crack like something was about to come out.

No matter how hard Leeha tried to think about it, it didn’t look like an adult-sized Blaugrunn would come out of the egg-!

“Oh!”

Finally, the top shell of the Easter Egg fell off.

“It’s coming out, it’s coming out!”

The easter egg had a jewel-like surface, but it really became egg-like after exhausting its ‘use’, and the eggshell of the ostrich-sized egg, fell apart little by little.

While watching the scene, Leeha felt somewhat uneasy.

He had seen a scene like this in a dinosaur movie a long time ago. He thought it moved for a moment, the moment of its birth….

‘Even the lead dinosaur in that movie, even the T-Rex, came out of an egg-’

Craaaack-!


Ttuk, ttuk, the shell cracked and the fragments fell off. And finally, the figure of the bronze dragon coming out of the egg caught his eyes.

It had scales roughly colored with turquoise, it was a dragon scale with stronger physical defense than a ranker-class tank!

Its sharp dragon claws stood out, which had a stronger physical attack than a ranker-class dealer!

Paa ——–!

With an intense light, the Easter Egg was shattered and–

“Waaaah?”

“It came out! It’s out!”

And as soon as the light faded, Leeha, Bottleneck, and the Beard Brothers saw a creature fly into the sky.

『Kyuuu?』

“Ohhhhh! It’s a hatchling! God of Anvil!”

It was a creature that was very far from those dragon scales and dragon claws.

There was a very small dragon with straight horns, and round and cute eyes, that even made a loud popping sound.

“There’s a saying that if you see the birth of a dragon, even just once, in your lifetime, you wouldn’t have any regrets even if you died!”

“Boss! This is a happy occasion! Our smithy will do well!”

Seeing the three dwarves dancing, Leeha was not able to keep his spirits up.

What happened?

“……Where’s the adult dragon?”

A hatchling came out of the easter egg.

Why? What’s the reason?

“Oh, ohh? What? What? Why- why did a hatchling come out? What?”


『Kyuuuu?』

Flaap, flap, flap, the turquoise dragon moved leisurely in the air, flapping its wings.

Can it be called flight?

It was so slow that it could be called hover.

『Kyuuu?』

“Blaugrunn! W-Where did Blaugrunn go! My partner! Where did the handsome young man go?! No, no, my mythic-grade item! Easter egg ————-!”

Leeha hurriedly gathered the shattered easter egg shells on the floor, but he knew this too.

To be more accurate, he knew that the item would disappear after one use.

Facing the shoulder of Leeha, who was kneeling while holding the easter egg shell, the newly born Blaugrunn flapped its wings and landed.

『Kyu!』

The hatchling was clearly aware of his partner.

The dragon scales, which were still soft, rubbed against Leeha’s cheeks.

“Blaugruuuuuun!”

『Your partner, the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn, has been reborn.』

『Skill – Summon(Partner)/ Appear(Partner) can be used.』

“Nooooooo!”

Leeha screamed at the creature slightly larger than his fist, but all the water had already been spilled.

Babam-!

What the–

『Achievement: Witness of the Highest Order』

Congratulations! You witnessed a dragon’s birth. Just seeing the moment of a dragon’s birth, endowed with more divine power than any other life form, will give you impetus in life and earn you the respect of others.

Reward: Constitution +18, continent Reputation +1,000

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Witness of the Highest Order』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: Constitution +36, continental Reputation + 2000

‘Impetus……?’

Combining bronze dragon Blaugrunn’s area-of-effect magic with his sniper skills to make a big impact! Leeha only chose the easter egg with that hope in mind….

『Kyuu?! Kyuu!』

Pupipupipupi.

Leeha did not know what kind of driving force he could get when he saw the hatchling, who randomly rubbed its scales on his cheeks.

‘Right. Okay, I knew it. Come to think of it, the word ‘resurrection’ was not in the description.’

The item’s name was Easter Egg, but what was it actually? There were only the words ‘rebirth’ and living anew.

‘Keuk, was that a trap too, you freaking damned Middle Earth bastards! There’s still a trap until the very end?! These bastards! They are surely laughing while monitoring, right?’

Leeha even had the delusion that Middle Earth operators might be watching him.

“What an idiot! Why do you look so gloomy when you see this auspicious sign?!”

“Do I look gloomy…?”

“Look at this cute figure! Don’t you know that even God of Upper Earth couldn’t handle such cuteness and sent them down to the continent?”

“What I need right now isn’t cute-”

『Kyuu?』

Pupipupipupi.

Blaugrunn rubbed Leeha’s cheeks with the strength that could make Leeha’s cheeks disappear.

“-keuk… still, really-”

Wasn’t it cute?

Cute?… Could he sell it?

It was only then that Leeha, who had been in despair, met with the newly born hatchling’s eyes. The bright eyes of the bronze dragon were only focused only on Leeha.

“Blaugrunn?”

『Kyu!』

Right, it was a hatchling, but he didn’t know yet! Leeha had hope as he saw the dragon nodding his head when his name was called.

“Listen to me- do you understand me? Do you remember me?”

『Kyu! Kyuu!』

“Really? Okay! We,killed Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh! Huh?! Fighting together with Bailephus-”

『Kyukyukyu!』

Pupipupipupi.

“Ah…”

Did he just nod excitedly? While Leeha talked excitedly, blaugrun continued to rub his scales on Leeha’s cheeks.

“Puhahaha! You’re so stupid, even though it’s a dragon, do you think a hatchling will understand your words right away?”

“Can’t hatchlings understand words, boss?”

“They could, but not right after birth!”

Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers smiled happily at Leeha and Blaugrunn. At Bottleneck’s words, Leeha’s ears perked up.

“Then? When would he understand? It can use magic and transform, right?”

That’s right.

It was the same as the small dragons he met in front of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair. They were said to be of the juvenile class, but they were not much different from this hatchling in Leeha’s eyes.

“T-That’s what I know. Well, considering the ages of dragons- even among hatchlings, wouldn’t it be possible for the dragons to start acting intelligently after about 100 years?”

“How many years?”

“One…One hundred years.”

Reality and Middle Earth have a 5X time difference. Even so, 100 years is 20 years in reality. It’s enough time for the game called Middle Earth to disappear.

“Haaaa……. This is driving me crazy.”

“Why are you sighing on such a happy day?! That will bring you bad luck!”

『Kyu! Kyuu!』

Right, right, seeing him nodding his head like it was saying yes, Leeha thought that Blaugrunn might understand what he was saying, but Leeha decided to put his worries aside for now.

In any case, the easter egg disappeared after being used as well as the chance to pick an item from Bahamut’s lair.

However, hadn’t his partner been revived? He also got an achievement and two skills.

‘Of course, I don’t know how useful it will be…… still, let’s think positively that he is my partner.’

Leeha spread his palm in front of his chest. Did he understand what it meant? Blaugrunn, who had been sitting on his shoulder, fluttered and landed on Leeha’s palm.

The weight felt light, and Leeha felt a kind of warmth even though it was like a reptile with scales in his palm.

“Let’s find out if you remember anything when we can converse. Please take care of me, blaugrun-ssi.”

Leeha lowered his head toward the bronze dragon hatchling sitting on his palm.

『Kyuuuuu.』

The bronze dragon also nodded its slender neck and roared at Leeha.

Beside him, Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers were trying their best to hold back their laughter.

(To be continued…)
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 Bottleneck grinned and patted his forearm.

“It’ll probably be ready in a week or so. Come and collect it then!”

“Okay, do your best!”

Leeha responded.

Chuckling heartily, Bottleneck exclaimed, “Of course! After witnessing the birth of a dragon, I feel invigorated. I want to put that energy into creating a masterpiece. I can’t wait for you to see it!”

Leeha pondered about Blaugrunn’s abilities, wondering if the dragon’s presence could inspire the driving force of life, as described in the achievement.

“It gives a little impetus”, he thought.

Leeha’s next destination was the royal palace, and he attempted to teleport to Fibiel’s capital. However, his head began to ache.

“Hey, blaugrun-ssi. Let’s teleport?”

Leeha asked the dragon.

『Kyuu! Kyuuu!』 Blaugrunn responded.

“No need to be shy. You can teleport, right?”

Leeha reassured the dragon.

Leeha knew that Blaugrunn was not merely a pet, but a partner. This was evident by observing the relationship between Alexander and Bailephus. And as for soulmates like Kuma, they couldn’t be moved using teleportation.

“Hmm, I have to move and summon- hmm?”

Leeha muttered as he realized that Blaugrunn had flapped its tiny wings and landed on his shoulder.

『Kyuu!』

“……You actually understand everything I say, right? Are you afraid I’ll ask you something, or are you doing this out of embarrassment? You pretended to be cool when you first met me, but now that you’re reborn as a hatchling, you’re shy and pretending to not know, right?”

Leeha teased the bronze dragon, who tilted its head at a 15-degree angle.

Despite Leeha’s lighthearted tone, the hatchling continued to behave as if it didn’t understand. But the exchange still brought a smile to Leeha’s face.


“Haha, alright, alright. Let’s go then.”

Leeha activated the crystal ball, ready to teleport to their next destination.

After 10 seconds, the turquoise-colored hatchling that sat on Leeha’s shoulder moved with him to Aelstock.

After checking the hatchling on his shoulder, Leeha tilted his head.

‘Does it move together when it’s close to me? It isn’t even a mass teleport… Or is it because of a dragon’s mana sensitivity? I need to be able to communicate to ask!’

The face of the bronze dragon, which looked like it was smiling, was naturally cute.

Leeha suddenly remembered Blaugrunn’s handsome face when he was in human form, and he was even a little pleased.

“There will come a day when I will see it again. I’m going to the palace now, so please stay still and don’t stand out too much, blaugrun-ssi.”

『Kyuu!』

“Ah, now that I think of it, I can select three items from Blaugrunn-ssi’s lair. And since you’ve been reborn, can you allow me to take a few more? After all, we are now ‘partners’ forever, and even a big shot like you-”

Leeha was glad to have a good companion to accompany her during the tedious journeys she usually found herself on. While conversing with Blaugrunn, she made her way into the royal palace.

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Ah, Nara-ssi.”

Upon Leeha’s entrance into the palace, Shin Nara warmly greeted him. Leeha couldn’t help but wonder if Nara had also logged in as soon as she arrived home, given that there seemed to be no significant time difference between their logins.

“Did you get home safely?”

“Of course. I logged in right away. I had a feeling you might be here, so I didn’t bother to wash my face before logging in. Hehe.”

Nara replied, smiling at Leeha’s words. Her cheerful mood was infectious and lifted Leeha’s spirits.

“We were supposed to meet next week, but we met again so soon.”

“So, you don’t like it?”

“I do.”


Leeha shrugged his shoulders in response to Nara’s pouty expression, as he had expected her to react that way. As they walked towards the central palace in the royal palace garden, Nara suddenly noticed a peculiar creature.

“By the way, what’s that? What kind of doll is on your shoulder?” she asked curiously.

“Ah, this…”

『Kyuuu?』

As Nara approached to get a closer look, blaugrun peeked out from behind Leeha’s head and made eye contact with her. The creature was smaller than a puppy and had soft scales that did not resemble dragon scales yet. Nara’s expression softened immediately as she saw the cute face of the creature, which was unexpected for a reptile.

“Whoaaaah?! Leeha-ssi! What is this? Where did you get it? Is it a summon?” she asked, brimming with excitement.

Leeha hesitated for a moment before replying, “Well, it’s a bit complex…”

“Come here, come here~ chuchuchu”

『Kyu, Kyuuuu.』

As Shin Nara excitedly spread her arms, blaugrun took off from Leeha’s shoulder with a flap of its wings. It flew at a slow speed, just as Leeha had expected, but Nara watched in anticipation as the dragon waddled through the air.

“Whoa, it’s flying! Hooooow! It’s so cute! Amaziiiiing!”

Nara exclaimed in delight.

Blaugrunn gently landed on Nara’s hand and nuzzled its nose against her wrist, showcasing the unique charm of a dragon that had never been experienced by anyone in Middle Earth before. Leeha couldn’t help but be surprised by the sight of the turquoise-scaled bronze dragon.

‘Blaugrunn-ssi…you’re male as well’, Leeha remarked, recalling that when Blaugrunn had taken on human form, he was male. Since he had been reborn using his mana, there was no possibility of changing genders. Leeha looked at Blaugrunn, who had surrendered himself to Nara’s caressing hands, with a hint of pity. However, he was not jealous. Blaugrunn was too adorable for him to feel any such emotions.

“Where did you get it? Why does it look like a dragon? Who summoned it?”

Nara continued to ask questions while petting Blaugrunn. Leeha felt overwhelmed and didn’t know where to begin explaining.

“Hmm, it’s mine for now, and… it really is a dragon. It wasn’t what I originally wanted-”

As Leeha was about to talk, a high-pitched voice came from the entrance of the central palace! It resonated.

“Ha Leeha!”

“Oh, is that Ram Hwayeon?”


Leeha asked, recognizing the voice.

“I need to explain a lot of things, so we’ll need a lot of time…what are you doing?”

Ram Hwayeon asked, appearing at the entrance of the central palace.

Step, step, step.

Hwayeon quickly approached with a brisk gait and her eyes fell upon Nara, who was engaged in conversation with Leeha. Nara stepped away slightly when she saw Hwayeon approaching, with Blaugrunn still perched on her hand.

『Hyu, kyuuuu…….』

With his dragon’s instinct sensing that the eyes of the two women collided, blaugrun flew back and sat down on Leeha’s shoulder.

“Hello, Ram Hwayeon-ssi?”

Nara greeted Hwayeon.

“Ah, hello. Thank you for your hard work. I’ve been wondering, aren’t you more concerned with defending the palace than defending the capital these days? With the royal guards in place, I’m questioning whether there is still a need for the Sacred Knights”, Hwayeon expressed her concerns.

Meaning, if you’re the defender of the capital, why are you in the royal palace?

“Of course. There are a lot of unreliable outsiders coming in and out claiming it’s for the peace treaty, so I have to be vigilant. We can’t just trust the NPCs, can we?” replied Nara.

Meaning, t’s because of ‘unreliable people’ like you.

Bzzzzt-!

Contrary to the gentle tone of the two women, their eyes were making sparks. If there was a strong wind, the red and black hair of the two women would have soared into the sky. Even Leeha, who was next to them, couldn’t say anything about the women’s fighting spirit.

“Then, Shin Nara-ssi, please look after me while patrolling around the palace. We’re a little busy with the peace treaty. Let’s go, Ha Leeha”, said Ram Hwayeon, gesturing for Leeha to follow her.

“Oh my goodness, didn’t I just tell you? I am guarding the palace because of the peace treaty. I go around to protect the people inside the palace, so I will escort you.”

“Huhut, no, there’s no need. The central palace side is fine, so it would be better if you just go to the eastern palace or western palace.”

Bzzzt, bzzzt—!

‘Euk, it looks like Blaugrunn’s lightning magic.’

The paralyzing effect of the pressuring atmosphere created by the two women was akin to magic, rendering Leeha unable to move.

“What are you doing, let’s go quickly.”

Tok-!

Ram Hwayeon broke the stare-down with Shin Nara and grabbed Leeha’s wrist with force, causing him to feel flustered. However, as they were about to leave, a strange feeling nagged at Leeha, as if something was amiss.

“Leeha-ssi?”

“Leeha-ssi?”

Shin Nara asked with a smile, but it wasn’t a friendly smile.

“Come quickly! Aren’t you doing a quest? All the nobles are gathered in the conference hall, you just need to enter and your quest will be completed.”

Ram Hwayeon pulled Leeha’s arm roughly. He can resist, but what should he do in this situation?

“Oh, excuse me- that- I came here today because of the peace treaty. W-wait, Ram Hwayeon! Nara-ssi-”

“Okay, understood. Well then.”

Watching Leeha being dragged along, Shin Nara lightly bowed her head! And turned her back. The sacred knight’s cape fluttered on her back.

“Ah…”

What could Leeha do with her cold expression? Leeha was having a headache, but he couldn’t think about it right now.

“First of all, I will tell you the information we got from Minis. Listen carefully!” It was because Ram Hwayeon’s mouth did not rest even when they were walking quickly.

“Users?”

“Yes. Okay, according to our intelligence. We were wondering why Minis is being lowkey, so we looked into it, and heard that there were users who were together with the chimera. Besides, that user- Phew, what’s going on in Middle Earth? Don’t be surprised. The user that is with the chimeras-”

“.. Is it Faust?”

“What? How did you know?”

“I heard it from somewhere.”

“Ts, then you should have told me!”

“No, no, I heard something different. I didn’t know that he was going with the chimera.”

All that Leeha knew Faust followed Bluebeard while Bluebeard was with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. After Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh death, he hadn’t seen much of Bluebeard or Faust.

“Hmph, but you didn’t know that Faust isn’t the only one, do you?”

“What?”

“Right before the recent uproar started, three more people left the guild Faust belonged to. Of course, Faust left the guild first.”

“Hmmm……. them what could be-”

“On the same day, didn’t renowned outsiders from Minis also leave? Besides, their occupations were warlock, sorcerer, and black mage respectively. On the same day, three outsider-level users at the same time, their occupational group is also similar to the dark magic system……. Doesn’t it seem suspicious?”

Ram Hwayeon’s intuition was definitely great. A quest related to Bluebeard hadn’t even appeared for her yet. She was collecting and categorizing information on her own, on the contrary Leeha had gathered information by completing the Three Musketeers and dragon-related quests.

“You can’t contact all three of them?”

“We couldn’t. The whispers were blocked. It was the same with Faust. Faust is going around with chimeras, and there were unknown users beside him……. It fits perfectly. And how great it was to be for newcomers. It was as if someone was only telling us which cities were good to attack.”

Ram Hwayeon trembled. Even though she wasn’t particularly attacked by the chimera, Faust, the unknown users, and the chimera’s attack on Minis gave Leeha an idea.

‘Well, it is worth it.’

The reason was simple. Ram Hwayeon had a personal debt against Faust during the national war. It was because Faust cut off all the supply routes passing through the marching plain and reduced her contribution.

.(To be continued…)
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 “That bastard, I will make him pay someday. There seems to be a rumor that Alexander is coming out, but strangely, we couldn’t meet him.”

“He has the gold dragon, right? Something like mana tracking- ah, he can’t because of Bluebeard. Did they say that Bluebeard was with Faust?”

“Well, I hadn’t heard of that. It’s hard to even get close, and even our spies said they only saw them from afar”, said Ram Hwayeon.

“So, they were not able to.”

Leeha concluded as Ram Hwayeon shook her head. Existences that could skillfully block Bailephus’ mana tracking were incredibly rare. And they couldn’t have imagined that the current situation was what Bluebeard wanted.

“Are you ready?”

“Okay.”

Creaaak-.

Ram Hwayeon opened the conference room door. The nobles, whom he had once met looked at Leeha with fierce eyes.

“Hello-”

『You have persuaded more than half of the nobles to sign the peace treaty.』

『It is a 100% persuasion rate.』

『You have completed the quest ‘Signing of Fibiel-Minis Peace Treaty-1′.』

Before they could even exchange greetings, Leeha was able to experience Ram Hwayeon’s power.

——-

Grrrrrrrr–…….

“This is awesome, boss. My experience is already at 37%……. My skill level is already up……”

“Me, me too. My summoned imps’ weapons have changed! It took months to change this once but in just a few days…. Thank you, boss!”

The chimeras were said to eat anything with four legs except for desks, but they did not touch the users next to them. Excited with great joy and anticipation for growth, the users looked at their ‘boss’, who had recruited them, with shining eyes.

“It’s as I told you. If you join the Demon King’s army, you won’t have to worry about getting stronger.”


The pure white lizardia, Faust, swayed his tail evilly and laughed. One of the powers he received from Bluebeard was to accept users to the Demon King’s army. It wasn’t as strong as Bluebeard’s, but Faust was able to use that authority to enhance the growth rate of users.

‘If I use someone I can’t trust, they will find where we are and the quest will fail…. But I can trust those who have demon-related skills and jobs, especially those who I have been together with for a long time.’

A warlock, sorcerer, and dark magician. It was true that Faust’s quest became much easier after they joined, but he was still dissatisfied. He wanted to raid villages more perfectly, quickly, and surely, but the number of people he could trust was limited.

“Hahaha, for real! Here it is, here it is!”

“I told you, why can’t you trust us even after doing business with us so many times?”

It was then that they heard a voice from beyond the darkness. They were a very frivolous male voice and a somewhat coquettish female voice.

“Who’s there!”

“What!?”

Faust and the users’ nerves became sharper. Even the chimeras prepared to devour the newly arrived users, but the users were unperturbed at all.

“Kihihihit! It’s a mosquito! Mosquito! How are you, my rotten corpse?! I came all the way here because she said that you were doing something fun!”

Faust couldn’t help but frown at the scratching sound coming from the man who didn’t take off his sunglasses even at night. Why did they come here? No, how did they know about this place? And the answer came from the tall woman walking beside Crowley.

“Faust-ssi, long time no see~ oh my, are these the chimeras? Nice. They will definitely be useful.”

She wore clothes similar to a kimono, held a fan, and walked tightly, but her speed was not slow.	

“…”

“……Alchemist Crowley. And…… Chiyou?”

Even Faust, a ranker, did not know exactly what Chiyou did, but the fact that she was involved with ‘intelligence’ had been confirmed through notices and rumors.

“Undead bastard, we went through the Marching Plains together! And now, you’re doing something fun by yourself? You should have called me if there are test subjects like this-”

“Shut up, Crowley. There was no way to an experimenting addict like you…’

Faust stepped forward and interrupted Crowley.

What more would he need did he need if someone willingly came to fire?


And who would be there to provide what he needed? What was Crowley’s skill level?

Faust was able to decide in an instant upon seeing Chiyou, who brought Crowley along with her, a collaborator who was able to find him and be of help.

“I am very curious why Miss Chiyou came to see me.”

“Heuung, good, good, I really like that Faust-ssi isn’t stupid.”

The two users, who could roughly guess each other’s intention, looked and smiled at each other.

—–

There was nothing more to do about the signing of the peace treaty.

The first persuasion quest was given by Browless, but the second quest just floated in the air and did not have much content.

『Signing the Fibiel-Minis Peace Treaty』

Explanation: The persuasion of the nobles had ended. What remained was to confirm the terms and conditions of the peace treaty.

Description: Complete the peace treaty between Fibiel and Minis in 7 days

Reward: Selection of a city with monopoly rights in commercial activities

Condition for Failure: Death of Peace Treaty Representative

Penalty for failure: Fibiel-Minis border war

– Would you like to accept?

‘If it’s only this much, then it’s no big deal.’

The parties concerned were only Fibiel and Minis. Besides, if they were the representative of the two countries signing the peace treaty, their position would never be low. Nor would they be unescorted. The problem was that there were beings who could crush them even with escorts.

‘If Bluebeard appears, he would wipe them out…. wouldn’t he? Hmm, who will be the Fibiel’s representative?’ Leeha had no reason not to come and reject the quest anyway. Leeha lightly pressed the accept button and looked at the nobles in the conference room.

“The recipient of the Medal of Honor……. Browless’ squire.”

“Please call me his apprentice. You are Marquis Hujak, right?”


“This-this bastard! You’re being rude to Marquis Hujak-”

“Ahh. It’s okay, Quintum.”

Count Quintum, who was next to Marquis Hujak, was more excited, but the marquis just looked at Leeha and Ram Hwayeon alternately with a cold look.

Leeha: How is that man? Is he trustworthy? Isn’t he very wary of me?

Ram Hwayeon: It’s okay. Because he likes me.

Leeha: W-what?

Ram Hwayeon: It must be because I did a better job than most NPCs. Heh, he’s an NPC that only looks after his benefits and the things that people do for him. He is like that….

Leeha hid his ridiculing expression and listened to Ram Hwayeon’s explanation. Regarding the conclusion of the peace treaty, the NPCs and users were divided into supporters and opposers and had a tremendous tug-of-war. Among all the opposition members present, Ram Hwayeon played the most outstanding role! The marquis, the leader of the opposing faction, thought especially well of Ram Hwayeon.

‘And when I suddenly appeared, did he think of it as me taking away Ram Hwayeon? Huh, as expected, it is tiring to get involved with Ram Hwayeon..’

No, that wasn’t it. Tired? What are you talking about? Leeha glanced at Ram Hwayeon. How could he think this of her? The work she was involved in was very tiring, but the results were always the best that Leeha wouldn’t have been able to think of.

‘……It’s worth getting greedy for. I have to admit what I have to admit. Come to think of it, why is Ram Hwayeon so nice to me?’

Leeha looked at the red-haired woman next to him raising her chin like a stately woman. Was it because he saved her during the previous guild war against Byulcho? Or maybe even earlier, for catching Black Angus? Or because he has a stake in Castle Dale, and is a kind of co-owner? No. Could it be that these things have happened because of some deeper meaning?

‘Wait, does she like me-? No, no. This was a typical characteristic of people who had never been in a relationship. Delusional!’

“What are you doing?”

“Huh? N-no. Nothing.”

As Ram Hwayeon smiled and asked, Leeha shook his head. It was only after the brief fight between Leeha and the marquis was over that Ram Hwayeon opened her mouth again.”

“Then, when is the date of signing, hujak-nim?”

“If His Majesty approves today, we will notify you immediately. The longest would be three days which is enough time for the letter to arrive.”

“Then who-”

“Do you really have to ask me who’s going? heh, that’s why I like you.”

When Ram Hwayeon asked quietly, the marquis smiled. Leeha was able to catch a glimpse of the conversation between the two people.

Leeha: Could he be the representative?

Ram Hwayeon.

– Of course!… It’s to the opposition’s credit that they were able to overturn the decision of the supporter’s faction that wanted to get only Castle Van Cowl. Isn’t it only natural for the leader of the opposition to be the one to represent the king?

It was another reason why the Marquis could not help but like Ram Hwayeon. Of course, she was not the only one to hand the ball to others. As the marquis held power in Fibiel, Ram Hwayeon would also have a stronger voice in the royal palace.

‘She really is resourceful…’

The one who asked for the decisive information was Leeha, but the one who specialized in dealing with information was definitely Ram Hwayeon.

“We have to meet Minis’ representative in 3- no, 2 days, so be prepared. Can I trust you?”

“Didn’t you trust me with your funds?”

“Good. Quintum!”

“Yes! Hujak-nim.”

“Give your full support to Ram Hwayeon. You can use my name if need be.”

“As you command.”

Quintum’s rank in the royal court was not low, but his absolute loyalty to the marquis was laughable to Leeha. It must be to show the power the Marquis had in Fibiel.

‘We are no different from a victorious country, so they will sign it here.’

About three days later, in Fibiel’s royal palace. Unless Bluebeard attacked directly, no one will be able to do anything here. The thing that Leeha was worried about had disappeared.

‘The problem is, will it be until Minis’ representative comes here?’

The condition for failure was clear. It was not only to protect the marquis. The quest will end when either of the country’s representatives dies. In other words, Leeha had to protect Minis’ representatives as well, whoever they may be. Then what should he do? Leeha asked Ram Hwayeon for the necessary information before leaving the palace.

“3 days……. As expected, it’s not easy to become the lord of a castle. I knew that there’s no freebie in Middle Earth, …’

Leeha sighed and trudged out and it was already dark outside.

“The Holy Grill must be closed now.”

Leeha made his way through the dark streets of the capital and walked toward a noisy restaurant at night. To prepare for an emergency, he needed to be aware of quite a few things.

.(To be continued…)
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 The chimeras and a group of users stood facing each other in an unmarked location on Minis’ map, where neither users nor monsters would normally venture.

“Are you certain about this information?”

Faust asked.

“Didn’t we join forces because you trust me? Have you forgotten who provided you with this location?”

Chiyou answered confidently.

“Of course I trust you, but…… even if it’s fast, it’s too fast. According to the count’s expectations-”

“Huhut, when you say it like that, you really look like the count’s servant. It’s an NPC anyway, so should I do it even when I didn’t see it.”

Chiyou got on Faust’s nerves.

“S-Shut up! I-It’s because it became a habit, habit!”

However, other than throwing a fit, Faust could do nothing to her. The place they were in was provided by Chiyou’s guild. It was only after joining hands with her that Bluebeard’s followers, Faust, and the chimeras were able to safely roam around Minis.

“I’m sure of the information I heard from the NPC I personally served. The Minis’ representative signing for the peace treaty will depart tomorrow.”

There was no need for her to come here. He could send Sasuke or a messenger as usual if it’s only at this level of information. However, as far as Bluebeard was concerned, she had no choice but to come forward herself.

“Shouldn’t we stop that, boss?”

“Right. It’s what the count said…. The priority is to delay the signing of the peace treaty. And even if it is signed, it should take as much time as possible……”

Chiyou’s eyes lit up as Faust sighed. She was the only one who caught the meaning of those words. The atmosphere and nuances of words that cannot be heard directly. She used her five senses to pry information out of Faust.

“Why is that? And the count. Why doesn’t he show himself?”

“That’s none of your business, ms. Chiyou.”

“Heung-! It seems like we have too many secrets between each other while joining hands.…

“We just joined hands, you are not a member of the Demon King’s army yet. We only give each other what we want. Well…… No matter where and how the Minis mission goes……. You have to tell me what time they will leave and what time they will arrive before I tell you anything.”

And Faust was also a ranker. He doesn’t give Chiyou the most important information, only the appropriate information, and he gets a lot from her. It was never easy to accomplish this high-level ‘push-pull’ with Chiyou.


“Kihihit, what are you worried about? Where would they go? The Marching Plains, of course! Isn’t that where you and I, corpse lovers, went wild?”

“Shut up and stay still, Crowley. Please. Strictly speaking, you also belong to the Demon King’s army, and under me as well.”

“That’s just because you met the count first! If you want, we can fight. What? Would you like to taste my concoctions? Shall we fight to see who’s the boss?”

Crowley pulled a vial out of his pocket, held it up, and threw it. The other players around him were startled and backed away, but Faust stood still.

Although Crowley and Faust had different personalities, both of them believed in each other’s ‘virtue’.

Had he really been such an unrestrained person, he would not have been able to make a name for himself as an outsider.

‘Tsk, if Faust had a personality like Crowley, he would have been cooked already… He isn’t as easy to deal with as expected. Now, how can I get the most profit…?’

Looking at the two people’s words and actions, Chiyou clicked her tongue in frustration. However, it was a fleeting moment, and before she knew it, her brain’s gears were turning.

What information to whom, and to what extent?

What kind of situation should she create so that she could get a lot of benefits?

“Crowley is right about the route. It is in the Marching Plains. They will depart from the capital at 11 o’clock. They should be able to cross Marching Plains in 3 hours.”

“To which direction? How many people?”

“Well, I haven’t heard anything about that yet…… Wouldn’t they go through the center? Or, distribute the personnel.”

Chiyou shrugged. Faust narrowed his eyes and glared at her.

‘Damned bitch, you know what you’re talking about. I can’t get a sense of whether it’s true or false to mention that it’s going to cross the center…’

Did she twist the information once, or twice? Faust, who knew that Chiyou was not an ordinary user as well, could not easily decide.

“Good. This time, after feeding the chimeras, I will help Chiyou blow up one city she wants”

“Oh, really? Heung, but I really don’t know the route. I will try to talk to as many as people possible and let you know.”

“……Please.”

“It is nothing. We’re helping each other, well then, I will go now. Take care, everyone!”


“Goodbye, Chiyou! Next time, instead of being a waitress at your bar, why don’t you serve-”

Swiiik-!

Just as Crowley was about to shout playfully, Crowley’s body had already moved in front of him. A thin needle protruded from behind the fand and landed on Crowley’s throat. Chiyou’s distorted expression was something only Crowley could see at that angle.

Kehehek!”

“Crowley-ssi must be very tired these days. You can’t even speak properly.”

She didn’t stab it, Chiyou just touched his skin lightly. However, Crowley only chuckled as he couldn’t speak anymore. Other users did not know what she did. Only Faust, ranked 8th, was able to guess that she had done something that matched the nature of her job.

“Well then! Tomorrow! Fighting!”

She cheered in a dainty pose and walked out of the safe spot. How many steps had she taken after leaving that place? As soon as Faust and the other users couldn’t see Chiyou, a shadow popped out from her side.

Sasuke lowered his head and asked.

“Did it end well?”

“Yes. Contact Viscount Garde and tell him that an impure force will appear in the Marching Plains tomorrow. I couldn’t figure out their identities, but their number…… should we say about 20 people? Then give him 2 or 3 guards.”

“Okay. Then Faust-”

“I can tell the number of guards before it is increased, right? It’s no fun if one side wins too easily.”

Both sides must want Chiyou. Information should always be unfortunate. At least, she was the one who strictly adhered to the iron rules of those who handle information.

“Then what will happen?”

“Faust will still probably win. Ah! Don’t forget to follow suit and rescue Garde. It doesn’t matter if the delegation leader gets eaten, but he still has a lot of use.”

“That means the peace treaty-”

“Yes, we have to stop it. It would be better to raise Faust’s hand at least once. He is still hiding a lot of things. He has so many suspicions that he doesn’t even give me information..”

“As expected…… I understand, oka-san.”

Sasuke repeated her instructions once more. Of the two people who walked silently, Chiyou spoke again.


“Ah, did you hear any information about Ha Leeha?”

“We couldn’t even find his location these days…. It is said that someone saw him in the capital a few days ago.”

“The capital……? Why?”

“I think it’s because…… there’s a separate talk within the palace.”

“Heung, those NPCs eat a lot without spitting anything out. Try to loosen them up and let me know if you have any news. It seems Bluebeard isn’t going around with Faust. Something might come out if you follow Ha Leeha.”

“Understood.”

“Then, please work hard. After all, Sasuke is the only one I could trust.”

Chiyou hugged him lightly.

Although he was wearing a black mask, Sasuke’s face heated up slightly.

She also knew very well how to manage her subordinates.

******

“Then, please. Count Avandone.”

“Yes, Your Majesty. With the confidence that we will never get pushed by those wicked Fibiel bastards…… I will convey Your Highness’ will.”

The King of Minis nodded.

Of course, the representative of the peace treaty signing delegation would be an NPC, and behind Avandone kneeling in front of the king, there were a lot of NPCs and users who would go to the signing of the peace treaty as their escorts.	

But it couldn’t be a big public event. The peace treaty started on equal grounds. Minis, for a while, held the upper hand, but now, they had to lower their heads and agree. It was disgraceful to Minis, but it also meant that the chimeras roaming around were causing great damage.

“Viscount Garde, are you ready?”

As soon as Avandone left the royal palace, he checked the security situation.

It was Count Avandone, who was the representative of the peace treaty signing delegation and the agent of Minis’ king, but it was Garde’s job to bring Avandone safely to Fibiel.

“I gained some information and strengthened the security. Don’t worry, Count.”

“Hmm. Good. Let’s go.”

This is the NPC who got the information from Chiyou.

Behind Garde, the users who had just received the quest this morning were following them.

‘But what happened? Why is it so sudden?’

‘I don’t know. They told me to stop the Marching Plains raid. It’s the first time I’ve ever had an escort quest where I don’t know what will happen.’

‘So what is the ??? reward? If we complete this, will we get an item?’

‘Arthis, when did Garde ever give us anything? I was really looking forward to it because it said the reward was ‘??? reward’, but the difficulty level is shit, and the reward is 50 contributions. The knight users whispered and maintained the rear of the guards.

Considering that there were about 20 NPC knights and 20 users, there were quite a lot of them, and except for the time they moved through Marching Plains, they could use a warp gate.

“Everyone! Warp to Castle Van Cowl!”

Sir, Yes Sir!

The delegation, which took their eyes off the Minis’ capital after walking for a while, immediately conducted a warp on the spot.

The place where they gathered was Castle Van Cowl, one of the places closest to Marching Plains.

“Border formation! There’s information that there is a force trying to harm the delegation of our country! Be vigilant! Organize and disperse as instructed in advance, widen the distance!”

As soon as Garde came out of Castle Van Cowl, he ordered the NPCs and knight users. Everyone followed silently, but there wasn’t much enthusiasm.

‘I am so sleepy.’

‘Just leave. So what if it’s a quest?’

‘Let’s finish this quickly and go hunting.’

The quest the knight users received was simple. They needed to pass through Marching Plains and enter Nitai of Fibiel. If they could get there, they would be able to use the warp gate to directly go to Fibiel’s capital.

‘In other words, if we travel fast we could get there within 3 hours…. Is that possible? It’s not even war.’

Even though the issue was heavy, anyway, isn’t it a big event in Middle Earth if it’s the signing of the peace treaty? Who can really stop this? Most importantly, marching Plains is made up of flames. There was no good place to hide and lay an ambush. It meant that even if the distance was wide enough, the ‘malicious force’ feared by Garde could be discovered and blocked.

“Boundary formation complete.”

“Hmm. Then please, Garde.”

“Don’t worry. I will risk my life to protect the count.”

With the front and rear as well as the flanks widening enough distance, the delegation began to cross the central part of the marching plains.

.(To be continued…)
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 It took about two hours to enter the Marching Plains and pass through areas sparsely populated by monsters.

They were so relaxed to the point where they could yawn at any moment. This was the case for both users and NPCs.

What could happen when there was no place to hide? That was the trap of the accident. A surprise attack by simply hiding and appearing? That was the only thing the users were able to come up with.

“Oh-ohh- what’s that in front-”

“Something mushy- there’s something mushy!”

If a transparent film was placed in front of them, would they be able to see the other side? In front of the delegation, the knights who were walking ahead and on alert tilted their heads.

chiiiik—!

And the space began to tear as if a membrane was getting peeled.

“Mana Barrier!”

“Space Lock!”

“Communication Interference!”

『The abnormal status ‘Mana Blockade’ has been applied.』

『You cannot go beyond the restricted area for 30 minutes.』

(If you have a higher ability than the caster, the barrier can be broken.)

『The abnormal status ‘Space Shackles’ has been applied.』

『All space movements within the range are restricted for 15 minutes.』

『The abnormal status ‘Communication Interference’ has been applied.』

『All chats, including whispers and group chats, are prohibited for 15 minutes.』

“Ugh-! A-ambush! Am-”

“What?!”


“N-no! I can’t see Nick!”

Three people wearing masks appeared through the torn space.

Unlike usual, their nicknames did not appear even when they used PK-type magic. However, the users couldn’t care less about that.

In the brief moment when the users were flustered, sticky lumps quickly crawled behind the three.

“Grrrrrr–!”

“……Those surely-”

Only then did the users figure it out. That it was already too late.

“Chimeraaaaaa—-!”

The Demon King’s servants have already completed all preparations. Fortunately, Faust and Crowley did not appear.

Since the information provided by Chiyou was not enough to pinpoint the exact location of the delegation, Faust eventually chose to split up. The route Faust and Crowley went to were the upper part and lower part of the Marching Plains respectively. Of course, Faust and Crowley had 10 chimeras each. At the center were the three users who were ‘slightly’ less skilled than Faust along with the rest of the chimeras.

“How can we release this?!”

“It’s not possible! They are higher level than us!”

Of course, compared to Faust, who was in the top 10 rankings, and Crowley, who was on the upper tier of the outsiders, their reputation was only slightly lower, but it was not to the extent that they could be ignored.

They were powerful enough to be scouted by Faust.

“Call the capital! Emergency contact-”

“We are not able to contact them! Communication is blocked!”

The NPC knights screamed. That alone confirmed that the enemies’ identities were not simple.

No, it wasn’t just that, they were the ones who brought chimera and spread chaos to Minis. Based on the rumors, they only wandered around the edge of Minis, so what were they doing in Marching Plains?

It was a situation that the escort users could not even imagine.

“Fuck- stop them! Risk your life to stop them! We only need to protect count Avandone! 30 minutes, no, just 15 minutes!”


Garde was the first to step out of the situation. They have someone to protect after all. They had a clear priority.

“Grrrrrrrr.”

“Keughk, cruel Bash!”

He tried to swing his sword containing powerful energy but slipped from the chimera’s slime. Steam even rose from the blade of the sword that touched the slime for a brief moment, shiiiiik.

“……Acid? The chimera’s slime wasn’t poison-”

“Grrrrr!”

A chimera with five faces vomited bodily fluids while he hesitated.

Five lumps of liquid came out from the five mouths, four were avoided, but the knight user who was hit by one was immediately poisoned.

“Keok, there’s also poison-”

It was poison, it was also acid. It’s not either one or the other.

Chimera’s were artificially created monsters that possess both properties. Both users and NPCs did not have any experience in dealing with chimeras.

“Idiot! Get back! Tornado shield!”

Hwiiiiit-!

Whirlwind wrapped around the shield of the knight user. The wind made of magic was enough to blow away the bodily fluids the chimeras spat out!

The chimeras flinched for a moment, but for that very moment, there was support.

“Black fire!”

“Chain of Darkness!”

A black burning fireball and chains of mana with eerie smoke emanating from it. The two attack magics were directed at the legs of the user holding the shield.

“This -”

“Hallucination.”


And then the warlock’s illusion magic. The two flying magics suddenly appeared to be divided into thirty-three.

“What the heck?!”

Did their magic increase? What’s real?

“In front- front-!”

“What are you doing, you bastard!? Raise your shield!”

His colleagues behind him tried to warn the user, but the truth was no longer visible to him.

In front? There were 12 flying projectiles in front of him, which one was real-

Baaaang-

“Keok!”

The body of the knight holding a shield collapsed. It was not an instakill, but it was no different from it.

“Grrrrrr?”

“S-save me- Save me-”

If the wind magic disappeared, he would automatically become the chimera’s food!

The collaboration between the Chimeras and the three dark magic users who control them was excellent.

The users who led the charge with shields used their own magic, and the NPCs who attacked with swords utilized the characteristics of the chimeras.

The escorts for the peace treaty signing delegation slowly collapsed from the attack.

“Help me! Run away, run away! We are not their opponents!”

“Huhu, is it that easy? Dune.”

“Uwaa?!”

Kuuuuk…….

The flat land where there was nothing began to rise slowly.

Can their magic change even the terrain? The texture of the flat land rising and forming hills had also changed to sand.

“This is nonsense- there’s no way they could use magic like this! Even Lee Jiwon can’t use magic like this!”

At the feeling of his body sinking into a huge dune, the knight user threw down his sword and struggled.

Seeing that, the warlock who cast dune giggled.

Of course, it was a situation where the other knights around him could not help but curse.

“This bastard, what are you talking about?! Why are you struggling?! Pick up your sword! Stop the chimera!”

“You got it wrong! He’s already out of his mind!”

The three attack magic themselves were not powerful. The jobs they had did not have a lot of attack magic in the first place. In addition, the number of users who had their job were also few.

That’s why their attack magic was able to assist the chimeras more efficiently.

In a reality-like environment like Middle Earth, magic related to illusions, auditory hallucinations, hallucinations, and fear do not simply restrict behavior but rather provide fear that exceeds reality.

If one went crazy, all that was left was to be eaten by the chimera and slowly melt in their body. The user who felt that he was ‘buried by a huge sand dune’ was sucked into a chimera’s body as he struggled.

One got burned to death, one got whipped to death, and one got devoured by a chimera.

There was no resistance, nor escape. They can’t even report to the capital their situation.

More than thirty of the forty escorts have already died. Only Viscount Garde managed to push the chimeras away, but that didn’t last long either.

All that was left were three or four knights and Count Avandone.

“Ah, no, these bastards! Stand back! I am the count of Minis, someone who has been specially commissioned to go to Fibiel by His Highness’ command! If you kill me, you guys will be hunted in the future in the name of the king of Minis!”

“Kukukuku, stupid old man. I am already being chased, what would be different?”

Grrrr, grrrr…….

The three dark magic users and chimeras slowly surrounded them.

“Impertinent! Don’t you know how important it is to conclude the peace treaty with Fibiel!”

“Yeah, I know. That’s why we came.”

It was also useless for Garde to shout. If something like this could work, they would not have appeared in the first place.

Even though they were doing everything they could to survive even for 15 minutes, when the communication jamming or space shackles disappeared.

“I have no grudge, but I am sorry. Kikik, but we can’t help it because it’s our job. I have to kill you guys so our level-”

Bzzt-!

“-hmm?”

At the end of the dark magician’s vision, who was walking slowly, something shiny appeared.

‘What is that-’

Baaaaaang——!

He couldn’t complete his thoughts. It was after something flew through the chimera’s slow body and had already blown the dark magician’s head off.

A Baaaaaang sound was heard after 2.5 seconds!

“Miniiiiiis! You are the delegates from Minis, right?!”

A small voice was heard carried by the wind along with the gunfire.

Reassuring the surviving members of Minis was unexpectedly slightly frivolous.

Leeha ran in a hurry, holding Black Bass.

***

The news of the arrival of Minis’ envoy was continuously heard through the Holy Grill and Ram Hwayeon in the royal palace.

He had heard of what date and time, so he was already on Marching Plains, but even Leeha wandered around because he did not know the exact route.

‘I almost got into trouble! I thought I saw a black dot, so I came here just in case…’

Leeha was sweating.

He had not heard that they were from Minis, but the circumstances made it certain.

Most importantly, the ones who attacked them were controlling chimeras.

‘Damn it, what if he had been Bluebeard? I would die if I fight him now…’

Fortunately, dying was not one of the conditions for failure in this quest. Leeha was resolved.

In the worst case, he could rescue the delegates and die against Bluebeard.

‘I don’t think we could die together… Still, I couldn’t give up! I can’t just throw away the information Ram Hwayeon told me!’

Click-!

Leeha pulled the bolt.

He should have felt a heavy bullet loading and taken a knee-shooting posture, but it was different now.

The Black Bass was firmly supported by the stabilizer bar that stretched out from Leeha’s back.

The process of loading, aiming, and firing was compressed into two stages.

Naturally, Leeha’s reaction rate was more than 1.5 times faster than before.

Baaaang———-!

Through the scope, Leeha saw the arm of a chimera falling off. Having 4 more arms left was quite terrifying, but Leeha did not get frightened by that.

‘There are two more people. Are they Bluebeard and Faust’s? No, who was the one I shot first? Are they new recruits?’

Leeha didn’t know because their names did not appear. Through the scope, their form was clearly visible, but it was not easy to distinguish them wearing black clothes and masks.

If it was Bluebeard, it would have been possible to see the unique Bluebeard and a silver cane with a handle that was damaged by Leeha, but he didn’t see anything like that.

‘Most importantly…. His initial reaction would have been to run towards me at a speed that is difficult to follow. But he did not. Is it because the distance is far.’

The distance between the two is approximately 1,400m.

If it was Black Bass’ bullet, it would take about 1.7 seconds, and the sound of the shot would reach the distance after about 4.2 seconds.

This meant that after the bullet hit, it took about 2. seconds to hear the sound.

(To be continued…)
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 He was nearby during Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s sniping, so he noticed it, and now he is far away so he didn’t. Leeha thought that perhaps the reason Bluebeard hadn’t come to him yet was because of that. And that was the thing that prevented Leeha from approaching them hastily. If Leeha was alone and did not have anyone to talk to, he wouldn’t have been able to take a single step closer.

『Kyuuuu? Kyuuu!』

“U-uwaah? What’s wrong, blaugrun-ssi?”

However, it was different now. The blue-green dragon sitting on Leeha’s shoulder flapped its wings and smacked Leeha’s cheeks.

『Kyuu! Kyuuu!』

“P…… Please tell me in a way that I can understand…”

『Kyuu!』

Flap, flap!

“Aach, stop slapping me! You’re getting in the way of my aim!”

Blaugrunn tried to express his intention to Leeha. Should he aim first? Or should he focus on what Blaugrunn is trying to say? The enemies in the scope already hid behind the chimeras. Leeha’s choice was simple.

—————

“Damn it, what the hell?!”

“W-who- what kind of attack-” Pugwaaaaak!

Even as he said those words the chimera’s torso was pierced, and the slimy and acidic liquid gushed out. The warlock and sorcerer hid behind the chimeras and hurriedly stepped back. They could prevent the chimeras from attacking them, but that didn’t mean they wouldn’t take damage.

“Is there anyone who can attack from a distance without being heard? Is that even possible?”

“……There is, Ha Leeha! S-sniper Ha Leeha”

“Fibiel’s 1st rank in contribution, Ha Leeha? You mean that was true?”

It was still unbelievable for someone who was not attacked by Leeha during the national war. There were quite a few videos floating around the internet, but there were more people who thought that they were only fake edited videos that were for promotion.

“Can’t you send some summons!?”

The warlock let out a groan. Leeha was out of reach with ordinary magic. What could their magic do with a maximum range of less than 100m? Even if they used non-targeted magic, they could not even see Leeha’s figure, so it was difficult to aim. The next best thing was to send the sorcerer’s summons.


“Shit…… It’s easy for you to say! Should I send an imp? Just sticking our heads out of the chimera will kill us! It’s not even a distance that a spectral horse can reach-”

Kwaaaaak-!

Meanwhile, another chimera’s torso exploded. Avoiding the dripping slime, the two of them took another step back. It was still fortunate that the envoys from Minis were stunned and were only surrounding Count Avandone, but what if they correctly judged the situation and launched a counterattack? Ha Leeha from a distance, and Viscount Garde nearby. There were still quite a few chimeras left and the two people with dark magic-related professions were still able to control them in the meantime.

Kwaak!

Another chimera’s torso exploded again.

“Shit! At this rate, we will get attacked by the chimeras-”

Pooook-!

The sorcerer couldn’t finish his words. His head no longer had a part that could be called a mouth. He was only two steps away from the chimera. From the sorcerer’s perspective, it was a safe position where two chimeras acted as walls in front of him, but it was different from Leeha’s perspective. He saw a black mask poking out between the bodies of the synthetic monsters. As long as they appeared in his scope, there was no way Leeha would miss the opportunity to pull the trigger. Now, the warlock, who was the only one left, lowered himself further and built a wall made of chimeras in front of him.

‘Damn it, I should at least complete the mission!’

He forgot the main objective while trying to save himself. It also meant that those who experienced Leeha’s attack for the first time felt tremendous pressure. The warlock grunted from his crawling position and turned his body. His own magic didn’t work very well, but there were still seven more chimeras. Even using four of them would be enough to annihilate Minis’ envoys.

‘First of all, I must contact Faust-nim, just in case.’

The warlock made the chimeras advance. While moving towards Minis’ envoys on the left, he had to maintain a safe distance from the escorts as well as Leeha, which required a lot of concentration. As the chimeras approached again, the knights swung their swords with all their might, but they were not able to do anything as they were already few in number. One knight after another was quickly devoured…. It was not until the warlock made sure that no one from Minis could attack him that he decided to whisper to Faust.

Warlock: Boss! Boss! The sniper appeared-

『Kyuuu?』

“What the heck?!”

The warlock, who was about to whisper, heard a crisp cry along with a flapping sound effect. However, the voice that came after that was literally the god of death.

“Bluebeard really isn’t here?”

“You’re-”

Leeha’s actions were faster than the warlock’s words. Grapeshot bullets came pouring out of the needle-gun pistol held in his left hand. The user’s face was completely mangled and immediately turned gray. Leeha shouted without delay.

“Kuma! Push forward! And you’re Minis, right? Over there Kuma! Quick!”


Kuoooong———!

Leeha was able to quickly close the distance, and the reason for that was his soul mate, Kuma. The compatibility of fire against poison shone at this time. Although the knights with considerable levels were unable to handle one chimera properly, Leeha and the Brown bear, Kuma, did an excellent job of holding the chimeras in check and found a safe position.

“Count, now! Let’s go.”

There were only two survivors. Count Avandone and Viscount Garde. As soon as they got on their horses, Leeha threw bombs at the chimeras and turned around.

Baaaang!

The chimeras began to retreat from the flames that arose from the explosion. Without a leader, the monsters were not able to take proper action.

“Kuma, let’s go!”

Kuoooong-!

“Blaugrunn-ssi, aren’t you coming as well?”

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

“You understand me, right??”

『Kyuuu?』

“Cough……. You only answered properly when I asked if Bluebeard was here.”

Although their intimacy was already 100%, Leeha still found it difficult to communicate with the bronze dragon. The reason Leeha was able to come while riding on Kuma was that Blaugrunn made it clear that Bluebeard was not there.

‘But at times like this, you pretend that you don’t understand. Can he feel Bluebeard’s mana without being able to understand- what kind of system is that?’

He was not a pet, much less a summoned beast… With his ‘partner’ dragon on his shoulder, Leeha quickly climbed on Kuma’s back.

“Hey, Fibiel’s knight?! How-”

“Ah! Run! This way! I will take over the rear, so go at full speed!”

Count Avandone and Viscount Garde quickly rode in the direction that Leeha pointed with his Black Bass. Not to be outdone by them, Kuma began to run briskly with Leeha on its back.

“Thank you, thank you very much, knight-nim!”


“What knight? I am not a knight!”

“Then…… may I ask who you are?”

“Oh- I don’t know how to explain it, but for now, I am just a citizen of Fibiel. No, am I a knight now? Maybe a bus driver? Haha, hold the reins tight! We will directly go to Fibiel’s capital! Let’s go, Kuma!”

Kuoooong!

Frightened by the Brown bear’s roar, the horses sped faster. In a place far away place, the chimeras bumped into each other with grrrrrr sound.

* * *

Chiyou: Faust! Faust, are you alive?

Faust: What is it, Chiyou?

Chiyou: Hide, quickly!

Faust was surprised by the sudden whisper.

It was because Chiyou had rarely given him information through a whisper. Hide for no reason?

Faust: What’s going on?

Chiyou: Ha Leeha, Ha Leeha is going there-

Warlock minion: Boss! Boss! The sniper appeared-

‘Hmm?’

Overlaid with Chiyou’s whisper, the warlock’s whisper was heard. However, it was only for a moment. The warlock’s whisper was cut mid-sentence.

Faust: What happened?

Faust had a hunch with Chiyou’s sudden whisper and the warlock’s whisper getting cut off. He tried to whisper to the sorcerer and dark magician in succession, but it didn’t reach them either.

Faust: Chiyou! What did you say earlier?

Chiyou: Leeha went there! Don’t you know who he is?

Faust: ……Of course, I know.

Chiyou: Then you shouldn’t be so carefree! You might die, so hide yourself! You should always set your undead on standby!

It was an urgent matter for Chiyou as well. She tried to reduce the power of the NPC nobles and Faust while keeping the main characters alive at the same time, and making them move towards the desired direction. However, according to the information Sasuke heard, it all turned out to be futile. Sasuke, who followed the envoys from a distance to rescue Viscount Garde, whispered to Chiyou as soon as he saw Leeha, but it was already too late.

‘Damn it, how much can a musketeer do-’

However, Faust could not ignore Chiyou who was rushing him. He first called Crowley, who was at the lower side of Marching Plains, gathered all the chimeras and undead summons, and headed for the central route.

“Grrrrrrr–!”

“Grrr, grrr—!”

“Uwaaaaa! No, no! My cute experimental children!”

Faust and Crowley arrived at the central route at the same time and were only able to see the remains and the chimeras fighting each other. Crowley quickly approached and drugged the chimeras to ease their tension. The chimeras were synthetic monsters that had never been seen before and were made by Ghibrid, one of the Demon King’s Fragments, during the second human-demon war, but the ‘alchemist’ had already prepared enough ways to deal with them.

“Corpse lover! Where have all your men gone? What is this? Only five precious chimeras are left!”

“……Unbelievable……”

Even Faust, who arrived late, could not fully comprehend the situation. Who fought, how, by what means, and in what way? To investigate the traces, a corpse was needed, but the chimeras had already swallowed them all. In the end, only the horse that the delegation rode, a few reins mounted on it, and a few swords scattered here and there, were indicative of the horrors of the situation.

‘It will take a day or two for the delegation to deal with a lot of chimeras…. But Ha Leeha alone was able to kill the chimeras with our three members?’

To be precise, Leeha only caught one chimera. The other two were caught and eaten by the other chimeras while fighting each other, but that was because they suffered wounds from Leeha, so it was the same as Leeha killing them.

“Oh, what a waste, oh, oh, I won’t be able to recreate them! Dumbasses! That’s why you should have only used someone you can trust as your subordinate-”

“Shut up, Crowley. I am in a shitty mood right now.”

It was an insult that even Faust, who was usually tolerant, could not easily tolerate.

“……Ha Leeha…”

The face of the human he briefly encountered for a very short amount of time during Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s incident was deeply imprinted in the white lizardia’s mind. Grrrt, the lizard gnashed his teeth.

(To be continued…)

TL: The word for knight is 기사, which can either mean knight or driver.
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 “Thank you very much, knight-nim.”

From Leeha’s point of view, avandone was an NPC, a noble, and a citizen of Minis, a former enemy. However, after witnessing Leeha’s tremendous performance, avandone used the highest honorific as if he were treating Minis’ royal family.

“No, that- I’m not a knight. Haha. Ram Hwayeon-ssi, what are you doing? Come and greet them quickly.”

Leeha awkwardly received their thanks and quickly handed them over to Ram Hwayeon. At the warp gate of the capital, there was already a VIP welcoming crowd organized by Ram Hwayeon, and she was able to greet NPCs without being flustered because Leeha whispered everything to her on the way.

“I am Ram Hwayeon, a member of the special committee for concluding the peace treaty in Fibiel. You have worked hard on your journey. I will be serving you from now on.”

“My name is Avandone de Fronte, the leader of Minis’ envoy for the peace treaty signing. Please take care of me.”

Only the leader of the envoy and escort knight came. It was a ridiculously simple party, but Ram Hwayeon, who had already heard everything from Leeha, did not ask the reason. Minis’ envoy also didn’t talk about what happened to them on the way. From now on, it was a place where they had to risk the pride of their country. It was something that had to be done separately from being personally thankful to Leeha.

Leeha: Should I come to the royal palace?

Ram Hwayeon: Hmm, no, you don’t have to. You don’t have anything to do there anyway.

Leeha: I’m sad! How could you say that so bluntly?

Ram Hwayeon: I’ll admit that you did a great job just by bringing them here alive, so wait until the contract is over. Ah! And when the king calls and asks you to choose a city or castle you want, just remember one thing.

Ram Hwayeon was definitely a great person. She took the lead in escorting Minis’ envoy, and conversed with them while whispering to Leeha at the same time! Looking at her back, Leeha stuck out his tongue for a moment and asked.

Leeha: What?

Ram Hwayeon: Gaza.

Leeha: Gaza?

Ram Hwayeon: You should be the lord of the castle of ‘Gaza City’.

Leeha: Hey… I can trust Ram Hwayeon-ssi because you picked it yourself, right?

Ram Hwayeon: Hmmph, choose Castle Van Cowl or something if you don’t believe me. Do as you like.

Leeha: Keukkeuk, how can that be? Anyway, thanks! Please take care of me. You’re a trustworthy person.

Ram Hwayeon’s back, which Leeha was looking at, shook for a moment. Did she try to look back? There seemed to be a trace of embarrassment on her face for a moment, but that was it. Ram Hwayeon did not reply to Leeha anymore. No one noticed that she was flustered.


“Keeeung, for now, I have to consider that one quest has been completed…. Gaza City? I want to go beforehand, but I won’t be welcomed anyway.”

The city currently belonged to Minis. Leeha knew pretty well how he would be treated in Minis’ city. Rather than going first and earning more hatred, it would be better to go after it changed into Fibiel’s city.

“Well, Gaza it is!” Leeha, who had stretched out, tilted his head after talking to himself.

“Oh, isn’t the name of the city also catchy?”

『Kyuu?』

“Does Blaugrunn-ssi think so too?”

『Kyuuuu!』

The blue-green dragon flapped its wings. Leeha smiled and prepared to log out. At the time of the next login, the signing of the peace treaty should be over.

—-

“What happened, Chiyou! Why was Ha Leeha there?”

“Are you asking me about that now?”

“What then? Why are you asking that when you were the one who provided the information? No, before that! The number of escorts was wrong. Didn’t you say there were about 20 people!”

Faust was so furious like never before. In his heart, he wanted to subdue Chiyou and release his anger, but Faust knew that she was not someone who could be taken lightly. The 7th and 8th rankers glared at each other.

“I’m sorry about that. A little mistake happened on our part-”

“Mistake? Did you just say that it was a mistake? Three of my men have been logged out because of that mistake! It is 10 days of Middle Earth time, 10 days!”

The normal penalty was a level down, and it would not be possible for 48 hours. But they did not receive a normal death penalty. The penalty for Faust, who was given a specific mission as a member of the Demon King’s army, and whose main mission was to ‘waste time’, was greater.

“Kuhihit, that is possible! It’s hard to succeed in an experiment in one go! It’s trial and error, trial and error-”

“I told you to shut up, Crowley.”

Looking at Faust’s bloodshot eyes, Crowley fell silent. Based on his personality, he would have said, ‘What? Wanna fight?’, but he didn’t, it meant that the atmosphere was not that good.

“I am very sorry about the completion of the signing of the peace treaty, Faust-ssi. Of course, we will not sit still either.”


“What would happen if you don’t stay still? How are you going to compensate?”

“You said it before, right? Your primary goal was to delay the signing of the peace treaty as long as possible…. However, as long as Minis’ envoy has reached Fibiel’s royal palace, we will not be able to stop it. So let us help you achieve the second goal as much as possible.”

Chiyou opened her fan and carefully covered her mouth.

It was a time when she shouldn’t stand still, either. If she went against Faust’s mood, they might lose contact with the ‘Demon King’s user’ completely.

“How?”

“Users want to be stronger…… Shouldn’t we connect with the users who have enough skills to work together and maintain security?”

“Ha! Such weak words. Where can we suddenly get those people-”

“I can get them.”

Ttak-! Chiyou quickly folded her fan and whispered to Faust.

There was a brief moment of silence. Faust’s expression gradually calmed down.

“……Are you sure you can connect with them?”

“They also have very bad feelings towards that man that Faust-ssi is gnashing his teeth on. You already know it.”

“Hmmm, certainly…… you told me that there was a battle inside Fibiel.”

Faust nodded. It meant that the people Chiyou talked about were judged to definitely be helpful.

“Good. Then please.”

“All right. I’ll try to contact them, so please wait. Ah, and- you might have a chance to get back at Ha Leeha.”

“What are you saying? Does that mean you can find where he is?”

“I don’t know. We will have to wait a bit longer for that…… With or without him, we will definitely hit him, so don’t worry about it. Then, I will call you again next time.”

Chiyou left the safe spot with a huhu laugh. Knowing that Faust was looking at her suspiciously, she sent a whisper first.

Chiyou: Don’t come out and listen, Sasuke.


Sasuke: Yes.

Currently, Faust did not have a clear understanding of Chiyou’s organization. The only thing he knew was that Chiyou gathered information through her NPC contacts. Of course, the existence of Sasuke and the others were hidden.

Chiyou: Please contact Czar. We will meet soon. This time, not just Igor, but Czar’s members as well.

Sasuke: He might start a riot again, would it be okay?

Chiyou: Yes, I have seen him go wild. Shouldn’t he be obedient and bow his head when we say that we have found a way to overturn the rankings?

Sasuke: I understand.

The people that Chiyou told Faust were Igor and Czar. Even though they may be stigmatized as agents of the Demon King’s army, joining hands with Faust will be in line with their desire for strength and their purpose of expanding their power in Middle Earth.

Chiyou: And…… after the peace treaty is signed, Ha Leeha will receive a castle? Right?

Sasuke: Yes, that’s for sure. Not only was it announced on the broadcast at that time, but also confirmed by the paid NPC in Fibiel’s royal palace.

Chiyou: Good. As soon as it is decided which castle Ha Leeha will take, contact me. We should give Faust a chance to vent his anger.

Sasuke: I hope our anger will be resolved as well.

Chiyou: Huhut. Right? Ah! Continue tracking Alexander’s location. I don’t know how Leeha knew that the chimeras are weak against fire…. But if Alexander shows up too soon, Faust’s power will be greatly weakened.

Sasuke: Understood, oka-san.

Faust wasn’t the only one who was angry at Leeha. The more active Leeha was, the greater the reward and more enemies increased in the same way.

‘I will definitely pay you back this time.’

There was no way Chiyou didn’t accumulate resentment either. A person that wasn’t a part of the Demon King’s army, but held hands with the Demon King’s army, and tried to push humanity even though she was human.

The dancer used a teleport scroll only after confirming that Faust’s gaze had completely disappeared.

—

“Ahhhhh…”

“Are you awake?”

“Yes. Are you going to work already?”

“What are you talking about? I woke up so we could have dinner.”

“Huh?”

In real-time, after meeting Shin Nara, he logged in and ran around to protect the envoys in Marching Plains. It was like playing Middle Earth until dawn and barely sleeping. Of course, it was not something that could be endured with only two to three hours of sleep.

“It’s 9 in the evening and not 9 in the morning, isn’t it?”

“Right. Eat quickly.”

Leeha got up quickly and pulled his blanket. More than 3 days must have passed in Middle Earth. What about the peace treaty? The reward wouldn’t disappear just because he wasn’t logged in, but just in case. Middle Earth is a game that was meant to annoy users!

“Ah, son.”

“What?”

“Then, that…… I mean the restaurant.”

“Ah! Yes. How did it go? Have you met Lee Soobaek?”

“Yeah, there are reasonable places for sale. Would you like to visit next time? They said the price was okay because it would be auctioned off…”

Supporting Leeha, who was moving hastily into his wheelchair, Leeha’s mother spoke quietly. Leeha talked about it confidently, but it was a bit of a burden from a mother’s point of view. Therefore, Leeha answered confidently.

“Okay, I will provide the money. Don’t worry and just give it a try.”

“What? Will you not even look at it, or ask about the price?”

“Mom is a trustworthy person, so you can take care of it yourself. Ah, I will go look next time. Still, mom will be running it, so I need to know the location too.”

“Okay, yes. yes. Let’s go together next time.”

Leeha obtained legendary-grade types of equipment from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair. There were as many as five.

Moreover, since the spread of broadcasting and video materials related to the national war, the stock price of Middle Earth rose even more! Naturally, the demand for gold and other items was high.

‘And that’s not all. heuheu.’

Something was waiting for him once he logged in. Leeha quickly moved to the capsule and logged in. The notification window popped up as soon as he landed in the place he logged out from, the capital of Fibiel.

『You have completed the quest ‘Signing of Fibiel-Minis Peace Treaty-2’.』

『Reward: You can choose a city that has exclusive commercial rights.』

『Where to receive the reward: Central Palace of Fibiel’s Capital, aelstock』

『You have leveled up.』

“Great, great. This is it. My level also rose!”

As Leeha expected, the peace treaty ended safely. Contrary to his worries, the compensation was still the same. As soon as he connected, Leeha checked his friend’s window once, and immediately ran to the palace. No, he was about to run. Hwaaaaa一! Within seconds of logging in, a blue-green light leaked from his shoulder.

『Kyu!』

“Ah, blaugrun-ssi! Can you use magic?”

『Kyukyu, kyuuuu!』

The summoning magic and skill magic Leeha received when he became his partner. It was a skill that could summon a partner or go to the partner’s location. Leeha had it, so it was also natural for the dragon to have it.

‘Can I use that much even when he is still a hatchling?’

A creature that was not able to communicate with him would not be able to use magic…. Leeha tilted his head, but Blaugrunn, who was alone while Leeha was gone, was absorbed in rubbing his face on Leeha’s cheeks.

“Well, someday we will find out. Now, let’s go get the city!”

Leeha happily stepped toward the royal palace. Not as a group, but as an ‘individual’, the moment to be the first was waiting for him.

(To be continued…)
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 “Leeha-kun!”

“Oh, director-nim?”

Just as Leeha was about to enter the palace, Browless came out.

“Did something big happen this time? I heard you went out directly to save Minis’ envoys. They said that if it wasn’t for you, the peace treaty would not have happened.”

The NPCs moved directly to confirm the conclusion of signing the peace treaty. As Leeha listened to Browless’ words, he could see that everything had ended smoothly.

“Ah, is that so? I went out just in case, and by chance I got lucky.”

“Lucky. How can someone be lucky enough to do something like that? I am well aware of your thoroughness in striving for perfection. You’ve been through a lot.”

Browless praised Leeha with a pleased expression.

‘If the signing of the peace treaty quest failed, I can’t get the reward, but…. There’s no need to bring that up.’

Seeing Leeha smile awkwardly, Browless tried to pat him on the shoulder but his hand stopped midair.

“Hmm?”

『Kyuuu?』

“……Leeha-kun?”

“Oh, ah. Ah. This? No, this. This- this is my partner-”

“A dragon partner……? Could it be that you became a dragon knight?”

“No, that’s not it. That, no…… I don’t know how to explain. It’s quite a long story.”

Leeha briefly explained to Browless what had happened. Normally, an NPC would be able to figure it out in an instant, but it seemed different this time.

Most importantly, Leeha paid attention to the word mentioned, “dragon knight”.

‘Does he want me to assure him that I would not become a dragon knight? No, come to think of it, now that I have a partner, why didn’t the dragon knight advancement quest appear?’

Obviously, Leeha’s conjecture must have been correct. Looking at Browless’ reaction.


However, until now, he couldn’t find any keywords related to the dragon knight.

“-indeed. That did happen.”

“Yes. Bluebeard was also there when I slayed the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. I took the dragon’s head.”

“The dragon’s head……. No, more importantly, a fragment of the demon king joined hands with the chromatic dragons-”

“To be precise, he was kicked out of the chromatic dragon clan.”

“Is that so? You got lucky in two things.”

“Two things?”

“Leeha-kun, you have not become a dragon knight, and Bluebeard has not joined hands with the chromatic dragons yet.”

For Browless, those two things were considered of similar weight. Leeha felt proud because Browless words were always heavy when talking about the Demon King’s Fragments.

“Okay then, see you later. I’m going to see the Pope and plan the next thing. I think I will need you sooner or later, so I will call you again.”

“Understood! I will train harder and wait for orders!”

”

Hmm.”

When Leeha answered with determination, Browless also showed a determined expression and soon disappeared. If he found out the conclusion of the peace treaty, Browless should have learned enough about the chimera and Bluebeard.

‘And since the signing of the peace treaty is over, there was only one thing the Pope had to do.’

Leeha could roughly guess the situation.

In the name of the Pope, a punitive force will be organized to destroy Bluebeard and the chimeras.

“There will be a large-scale battle again soon……

『Kyuuu.』

“Ah, blaugrun-ssi, people are surprised because you keep sitting on my shoulder. Do you have nowhere to stay? Would you like to go into the bag?”


『Kyu! Kyuu!』

Blaugrunn shook his head. As Leeha expected, blaugrun could certainly understand his words.

“Cough, it can’t be helped. Don’t be too inconspicuous then. It would be more difficult not to stand out for a hatchling, who is already blue-green and flying to the sky…

『Kyu! Kyu!』

With the hatchling still on his shoulder, Leeha entered the palace.

The contents of the treaty between the two countries were attached in large rooms throughout the palace.

“This is it.”

If Ram Hwayeon had been online, he would have asked immediately, but she was currently logged out, so Leeha had no choice but to receive guidance from the NPC.

“Yes, thank you.”

“Don’t mention it.”

After staring at the guards for a while, Leeha knocked on the closed door. It wasn’t the king’s audience room that he had come to once. Rather, it was a much more office-like place that made Leeha tense.

“Cough. Excuse-”

Knock-! Before Leeha could speak, the door suddenly opened and someone ran out.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Come on in!”

“Oh, that- Lerik-nim?”

“You don’t know how flustered I was when you suddenly disappeared last time! How could you leave without saying a word…. I, who was in charge of the treasure house, was extremely worried! I could only exclaim, recipient of the Medal of Honor! Haha, no, should I say that it was due to you only taking two items from the royal treasury?”

The vice-minister of finance NPC. It was the NPC that guided Leeha toward Fibiel’s royal treasury.

The words pouring out like a rapid-fire made Leeha somewhat bitter, but now was not the time to explain.

“Yes, well- that-”

“His Highness has already written all the instructions. Leeha-nim will be provided the commercial rights to the place he chooses. Right, do you have any thoughts?”


Lerik pushed Leeha’s back and forced him to sit down. The talkative NPC was still the same, but he certainly had the ability to handle the task they had.

Even while talking, he took out all kinds of documents and held them out in front of Leeha, to the point of making Leeha think of Ram Hwayeon.

“This is the list of newly acquired cities and castles after the conclusion of the peace treaty.”

The daily floating population status, the number of NPCs currently living in the country, the distribution of stores by industry, and the items of revenue and expenditure are all necessary to run a city.

There were also papers on which small letters were drawn densely, as well as charts and graphs which made Leeha dizzy.

Leeha understood clearly. How lucky he was to have Ram Hwayeon as a friend.

“Let me explain, the one over here is castle-”

“Gaza City.”

“What?”

“I’ll take Gaza City.”

Because she already finished reviewing all the data.

“F-for explanations by province and city-”

“It’s okay.”

As Leeha finished choosing with a smile, lerik was rather taken aback.

“Of course, I can always explain- you have to come to the royal palace yourself-”

“Yes. It’s okay. Please finish quickly.”

Explanation was not needed. Because there’s no problem with Ram Hwayeon. She was even running a city already. If Leeha wanted to hear an explanation, she would tell him in a much more detailed and friendly way.

“Ah, it now belongs to Fibiel, right?”

“That’s right. As of yesterday, all rights were transferred from Minis. The nobles who will manage the city are already going.”

It was the same in Ram Hwayeon’s case, but in this case, the user is given the ‘exclusive rights for commercial activity’. In fact, the user would be called the actual castle lord because he had virtually all the authority, but there was a separate ‘nominal lord’ of the castle.

“Hahaha, I guess that’s it. If it has already been two to three days since the conclusion of the peace treaty……. Then, can I go right away?”

“First of all, please sign here. This is an oath of responsibility related to the exclusive rights in commercial activity. Here, sign here, and date here. There was also at the back, so please check it.”

Leeha wrote the date and name on the place where Lerik circled, and he was confused for a moment whether he was in the royal palace or bank.

After a while of paperwork, fanfare rang as he finished signing the last page Lerik handed to him. Babam-!

『Achievement: True Lord of Gaza City』

Congratulations! You have acquired 100% share of the exclusive commercial activity rights in the Kingdom of Fibiel, Gaza City. The residents of Gaza City are looking forward to you to further develop the estate.

Effect: Constitution +10, mind +7, intimacy with NPCs of Dale Castle increased by 50%, all facilities in Dale Castle could be used, and monthly income based on equity.

(This achievement does not have a hall of fame.)

『You have the majority stake in the city.』

『You can use city operation-related commands at your city office.』

‘Oh, that didn’t happen when I had a 10% stake in Castle Dale. After all, it comes from holding more than 51% of the shares-’

Leeha quickly read the description below and bam-! Another fanfare sounded again.

The above achievements can be received by all users who have risen to the position of actual lord of the castle.

No, to be precise, they were the guild masters of all guilds. Numerous cities and castles in Fibiel, minis, and Shazrashian, and the guild masters of the guilds, one by one. All of them would have that achievement.

It is a law that requires a huge amount of capital and manpower to obtain a monopoly on commercial activities.

However, it was a little different case for Leeha.

『Achievement: Untouchable(S-)』

Congratulations! You have become the de facto lord of a castle by yourself! Thousands of manpower and tens of thousands of gold capital, you are the one who has more value than that!

Rumors of your overwhelming abilities will make most NPCs unable to raise their heads. Don’t be surprised, it’s proof of your unapproachable status and dignity!

Effect: 21 stat points, continental Reputation +500, Permanent Buff- Dignity

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Untouchable』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.

Effect: Stat points 42,

Continental Reputation +1,000

“OOhhh?!”

Waaaa……… A golden energy lightly swept through Leeha’s body. He could feel that one of the achievement effects, the buff, had surrounded him. More than anything else, the proof was that Lerik, who had been a bit fussy until just now, suddenly shut his mouth and lowered his head.

‘An NPC like the vice-minister of finance would never be in a low position…

Even NPCs of this level literally could not lift their heads.

“Congratulations, Ha Leeha-nim”

“Cough, thank you Lerik-nim.”

Drunk with the ‘dignity’ for no reason, Leeha spoke in a solemn voice. He wasn’t very close to Lerik, but if it was a prank like this, he would smile and say something, but he kept his calm appearance.

On the contrary, it became so quiet that Leeha found it boring.

“Now all the paperwork was done. If you take this document with the deal stamped on it and go to Gaza City, the process is complete.”

“Do I just have to go to the office and give it to them?”

“That’s right. I will contact Gaza City in advance to avoid any inconvenience.”

“I understand. Thank you.”

“It was an honor to be able to help Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Aigoo, even if you don’t say that much- no, how do I turn this off, can’t I turn it off?”

Watching Lerik’s bow, Leeha hurriedly opened the skill window. Dignity?! To be dignified!

‘Will they keep acting like how they act toward the king?! It won’t be fun if it’s like this!’

『Dignity』

Description: The energy that only those who that only those who reach one of the highest positions than an individual can reach.

Effect: Absolute respect from NPCs in the country with less than 3000 continental reputation points.

Absolute respect from NPCs in other countries with less than 1000 continental reputation points

‘I see. Depending on the continental reputation, the effect would be huge…… Of course, the continental reputation of the vice-minister wouldn’t be high.’

Because each country’s national contribution and continental reputation are not unconditionally proportionate. Leeha thought that it was indeed a buff that came from an S-rank achievement.

Currently, leeeha’s continental reputation was a little over 7,000 which was quite high. It wouldn’t be easy for even an NPC to exceed 3,000.

In the case of NPCs in other countries, the requirement was further lowered, it did not even exceed 1000, and could not have an impact, but 1,000 could not be taken lightly either. In fact, almost all NPC residents and stores will probably lower their heads in front of Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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 After confirming that turning the buff on and off was possible, Leeha turned the buff off for a while, and then an idea came to his mind. It was always a place to ‘trade’, but with this buff….

‘Kukukuku, should I test it there before turning it off? To get some information.’

Leeha left the palace with a dignified attitude and headed for the Holy Grill. All along the way, the NPCs were extremely courteous toward Leeha, making him proud. However, not all NPCs lowered their heads. Leeha was getting drunk with the buff and walked with footsteps as light as a feather, and the NPC who did not bow to him whispered somewhere.

Leeha encountered the NPC, the young man wearing a robe with the emblem of the magic corps in it, a few times while walking through the palace and he was whispering through the air as he looked at Leeha near the entrance of the royal palace.

“Madam!”

“Oh, Ha Leeha-ssi.”

Since he had already been confirmed on the first floor, his voice was even more dignified as he called to Madam Ju.

Not only the waiters and waitresses at the Holy Grill Capital Branch but also the NPCs who came to eat saw Leeha and carefully lowered their eyes.

“Cough!”

“……What are you doing?”

Leeha coughed loudly in front of Madam Ju and puffed out his chest, but she only tilted her head.

『Kyuuu?』

Following her, blaugrun, who was on Leeha’s shoulder, also tilted his head. Leeha was taken aback for a moment but cleared his throat quickly and sat down in a chair, crossing his legs.

“Cough! Ahem! Hmm!”

“……What are you doing? That creature on your shoulder looks like a dragon. Are you here to brag? Heuheung, it’s a bronze dragon hatchling. It’s definitely a precious creature.”

Madam Ju did not even bow to Leeha. Afterward, Leeha glanced at Blaugrunn on his shoulder, and unlike other NPCs asking what it was, she clearly spoke in a way that clearly said that she was from an intelligence guild. Seeing that attitude made Leeha feel ridiculous.

“Have you been well?”

“What? I’m not that laid-back. If you’re here to ask something about that dragon, ask. If you just want to chat, we can chat next time.”

Madam Ju gestured to Leeha with an annoyed expression.

“Ah, no, I didn’t come to ask about dragons…. Are you really fine? Does respect appear in your mind when you see me, or something dignified suddenly-”


“Hmmm. Not in the least? Ha Leeha-ssi’s skills are amazing, but isn’t there a bit of a distance from words like dignity, respect, and the like?”

“Wow…”

It was only then that Leeha realized the dignity of the head of the intelligence guild, which handles information in the Holy Grill. It meant that her continental reputation exceeded 3,000 and that his dignity did not work on Madam Ju.

“Tsk, it didn’t work. I thought it would be a little more comfortable in the future.”

“Heuheung, there’s no way it’s going to be comfortable. It’s never easy to manage a city. With how much the floating population is. Congratulations Ha Leeha-nim, the true lord of Gaza City.”

“That, I didn’t mean to tell you that, but you heard it already?”

“Oh my, after making use of our guild so much, you are still ignoring us like that?”

Madam Ju smiled casually.

‘I don’t need the respect of everyone else, but I need Madam Ju’s respect.’

Leeha just left the royal palace and went straight to this place. It was a relatively leisurely walk, but it took less than 20 minutes. But the information already arrived at that time.

“So, what’s the matter?”

“Well…… I can’t ask someone to play with me if they don’t keep up with my rhythm. As you already know, I became the lord of Gaza City. So, it is city-related-”

“Hmmm, I’d like to tell you too, but it would be more accurate to hear directly from Gaza’s office rather than the information from us, right? We don’t really update city-related information daily.”

“Huh? For madam, who sells information at a high price, isn’t that a very lukewarm response?”

“In a situation where we want to build a greater trust in the true lord of the castle, it is only natural that we don’t hand over false information.”

Madam Ju shrugged. Rather, it was certain that her attitude made Leeha feel that she was trustworthy.

‘Well, I have been taking advantage of this place since the beginning. Friendliness is intimacy, and she’s certainly trustworthy.’

“I’ve never been a lord of a castle, so it’s hard to say, but there must be a lot of aides. You will be able to do business through them.”

“Hmm, in other words, something like a steward?”

“Steward……. Well yes. But don’t use that word in front of them”


Seeing her wink and give tips, Leeha smiled for a moment. He needed, to go and get information about Gaza City himself, so what else can he do here?

“Then, can I ask you another question?”

“As much as you like. If only you pay for it.”

“It’s about this guy on my shoulder.”

『Kyu!』

Leeha shrugged his shoulder and Blaugrunn made a sound. She looked at Blaugrunn with serious eyes, not saying that she was cute.

“About the hatchling……. What are you curious about?”

“How can I make it grow faster? I already know that there are juvenile and adult levels. When will a hatchling get to that level, and if quick growth is not possible, when will it be possible to communicate and use magic? I want to know.”

Leeha quickly spoke. In the past, he would have laughed and joked a little but Leeha’s attitude changed without realizing it.

Even if there was no dignity buff, Leeha is becoming an expert in dealing with people.

“What’s the price?”

Of course, it wasn’t just the voice and tone that changed.

“Holy Grill’s Gaza City Branch.”

Even in negotiations, Leeha showed a really skillful attitude without any bargaining skills. Madam Ju, who was doing a lot of things, stopped completely.

“……You haven’t been there yet, are you even allowed to say that? I like Leeha-ssi, but I don’t care about a man who writes empty checks……”

“I am the true lord of the city. Looking at the quality of information, we can lower the tax rate a little for the first three months.”

“Do you think we can get something to eat in there?”

“You already know that there is a large floating population, but it’s new. Moreover, the location is not in Fibiel, but in Minis. From Holy Grill’s standpoint, which does not update city information every day, it would be possible to create a branch on Minis’ side, no, in fact, it can be a second head office.”

As Madam Ju lifted her chin, Leeha threw the last bait which was overpowering…

“Most importantly, madam said it herself. 


‘I want to build a relationship of greater trust with the actual lord of the castle.’.”

Madam Ju’s smile grew wider. It was to the extent that Leeha was momentarily taken aback by the expression on her face, resembling a teacher’s attitude toward her student.

“Ten days.”

“Huh?”

“Give me ten days. I’ll gather all the data about dragons and hatchlings. Will you really give us a three-month tax rate benefit?”

“The quality of the data will confirm the answer.”

“Tsk, you didn’t even make an oral promise… Ha Leeha-ssi really doesn’t know how to pamper anyone. All right! I will tell you everything I can about a hatchling’s growth! Okay?!”

Information related to dragons was handled at the highest level in Middle Earth.

The reason why Leeha came to Holy Grill was because he couldn’t gather the information by himself, but things worked out better than he thought.

It was because he obtained the highest level of information that the NPCs in the intelligence guild could handle, and even received a definite answer that he would open a branch of the Holy Grill in Gaza.

“I, Ha Leeha, the city lord of Gaza will serve you wholeheartedly.”

Only then did Leeha show his playful attitude again and reach out to Madam Ju. It was a moment when Leeha realized that he had become a decent user whom the head of the intelligence guild could not push. It’s just a pity that he spent quite a bit of time here.

Everything was already over now. As long as you enter with dignity, Leeha would be able to enjoy your authority as the lord of the castle!

‘Since Lerik said he would tell information about Gaza in advance, he must have prepared for it to some extent.’

Leeha also spent quite a bit of time inside the Holy Grill. About an hour and a half after Leeha was officially appointed as the true lord of the castle.

“Where are you going?”

“Cough. I will go to Gaza City.”

“Gaza city, a city of Fibiel- excuse me, but are you the lord of the Gaza city?”

Leeha took a dignified pose and lowered his voice. The female NPC at the warp gate asked carefully, bowing her head as she tried to calculate the fee.

“Exactly.”

“The lord of the territory has free access to the warp gate between the capital and the city. Could you please step on the magic circle?”

“Ah, really?”

His dignity collapsed in an instant, but the NPC’s attitude did not change.

‘Isn’t that great? I think this is the first time I the warp gate NPC’s attitude change and be respectful for once ever since I started playing Middle Earth.’

No matter how he changed his items and got achievements, they were quick to respond as if handling civil complaints. Leeha was convinced that these NPCs did not even have the concept of intimacy! The power of the ‘dignity’ buff was definitely different.

“Fibiel’s city, Gaza, 1 person. We wish you a pleasant trip.”

Dak-! When the female NPC stamped the staff, Leeha felt a floating sensation.

He would finally go to a new place, somewhere that he might have to spend the longest time in Middle Earth!

Gaaaaaaah———-!

Run away!

Water! Water! We have to put out the fire in the building! Hurry!

Damn it, the fire brigade is already dead! The Gaza knights were on the verge of annihilation!

Chimera! Stop the chimera- Kuheok!

The capital- ask the capital to send reinforcements-kehoek!

A new landscape unfolded before Leeha’s eyes, a city he had never seen before even during the war, and now, it was burning.

“O-Ohhh? What is this?”

Before he could even be aware of what was happening, his body already moved.

Before Leeha knew it, he took a magazine from his bag and inserted it into the Black Bass, click-! Blaugrunn responded to the sound.

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

“W-hat- chimera?”

Flap, blaugrun’s wings pointed toward a direction and Leeha saw a lumpy monster that passed between buildings.

‘Are the chimeras here? That’s nonsense! Here- this isn’t even in the edge of Minis, how -’

Baaang——–

gwaaaaaa—–!

A building suddenly collapsed with a roar. And a large number of people jumped over the collapsing one-story building.

“Prioritize the NPCs! Stay in formation and kill the NPCs!”

“As for the users, decapitate the men and throw the women toward the chimera! With the most horrible memory of death, they will never visit this city again! Attack until they are traumatized!”

Even though they wore black masks and black clothes, the voices of the giants were clearly etched in Leeha’s mind. Moreover, their purpose was to clear after listening to their shouts.

They were aiming for the NPCs rather than users, and the act of pouring oil and burning buildings was not just PK, but for the sake of destroying the city itself.

“Kuhahaha! Break everything! Beat them all down and set them on fire so that that damned bastard can’t have them!”

He shouldn’t scream. In times like these, a sniper must remain calm. He must never reveal his position. He should aim for the enemy slowly. All of that knowledge and information disappeared. Leeha’s mind went blank.

Leeha’s focus was fixed on the giant who shouted last.

“Igooooor——-!”

“Kuhahahat, you’re here! I’m here! Call and Leeha will appear! I will get back my achievement today, you damned gunslinger bastard!”

The giant’s movement was sharper than usual but Leeha did not notice it. All he could see was a city being destroyed and NPCs dying.

(To be continued…)
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 NPCs who couldn’t come back to life, NPCs belonging to their cities who hadn’t even been appointed yet, were dying. For the first time while playing Middle Earth, Leeha felt unbearable humiliation and anger.

“You’re dead, You——fucking——bastards! Soul Link!”

Hwaaaaa–! With the explosive red light, Kuma immediately set fire to its body.

“Kuma! Take care of all the dregs, blaugrun-ssi, get to safety! Igor, I will kill you myself!”

Click-! Leeha pulled the bolt while giving instructions to Koma and Blaugrunn. His firing was quick enough to happen simultaneously with loading.

Baaaaaang——-!

It was shot at Igor, reducing their distance to 300m.

*** The distance was by no means far, and if it was only 300m, it was possible for Leeha to fire at speed close to rapid fire with increased accuracy rate and firing speed.

Not to mention, it only took 0.36 seconds for the bullet to reach the target, but Igor’s movements were so fast that even a hot-headed Leeha was flustered. He dodged the bullet with a reaction time faster than 0.36 seconds.

“Kyahahaha, do you think you can handle me now when you couldn’t handle me before? It’s not even funny!”

His exclusive weapon, the huge sawblade-like sword that Leeha had cracked the rear of at the northern troll settlement, had already been fixed. Igor, who was holding a sword coated in blood jets with increased cutting power, rushed toward Leeha.

‘He avoided it?! And that- damn it, damned that Bluebeard!’

There was no way Leeha would not have noticed. Most importantly, because he was with the chimeras. It meant that Igor also became a member of the Demon King’s army and received some kind of buff!

Leeha jumped and quickly opened the character window. It was something he wanted to save to equip a legendary item he liked someday, but he couldn’t afford to save it anymore.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 173 (0.3%)

Title: Fearless / Achievement: 107

HP : 5,930(4,151) / MP: 1,335

Stats: 	Strength 334(+249)

	Agility 2,338(+918)


	Intelligence 148(+97)

Constitution 215(+122)

	Mind 52(+42)

Remaining stat points: 346

He only leveled once. However, the stats that had already been added and the available stat points’ were qualitatively and quantitatively different from the ‘one level difference’.

‘No matter what happens, I will kill that bastard.’

Leeha gritted his teeth hard enough to make a sound, putting all of his stat points into agility.

Igor got faster? Good. Because Leehe was confident that he could go even faster.

His agility quickly reached 2,684.

Leeha immediately pulled the bolt and opened fire… He felt his moving arm suddenly accelerate to the point where he thought it was shaking the air.

If it wasn’t for the stabilizer, it would have been so fast that it would be difficult to aim properly.

“Die, ha Lee-”

“You die.”

Baaaaang——-!

“-Kokeok-! What is this!”

Igor managed to turn his head. He wanted to brush it off, but he wasn’t able to. With the difference of less than 1cm, Leeha’s bullet passed Igor’s neck! However, that attack alone forced Igor to slow down for a moment.

Because he could feel the ‘damage’ from the attack that didn’t even touch him.

‘Splash damage? No. It’s not splash damage. That feeling…… is just the wind. Wind?! I-it was just a wind pressure from the bullet-……?’

Igor quickly opened his character window and checked if his hp actually reduced, but he couldn’t believe it even when he saw it with his own eyes.

‘Can that be called attack power!? At that level, a mere graze could kill me! What the heck is that attack power-’


Baaaaang———-!

In the meantime, Leeha, who had increased the distance fired another shot. Igor boasted the bravery of a Russian Brown bear, but he couldn’t approach Leeha recklessly after taking damage from something that didn’t even touch him.

Igor naturally did not know Leeha’s attack power. Leeha’s current agility was 2,684. It was equal to Black Bass having 21,472 attack power. The dark elves’ skill, forbidden Rage, applied additional damage which further increased it to 25,766. There were more than 20 levels of difference between Leeha and Igor, which activated the effect of the title Fearless.

A total of 『33,496』 attack power. If one excluded skills and only looked at normal attacks, Leeha’s attack power was among the highest in Middle Earth. An attack power power of 30,000 that mages could barely reach by casting their single-target attack spells. It meant that Leeha could attack and reload in less than a second. Leeha ran as he looked at Igor. Even while running backward, Leeha’s speed was not slow.

Click-!

“You bastards made a mistake today. Did you know where you came-”

“All of Czar, charge! Destroy the city after killing Ha Leeha!”

Yes, sir! He tried to fire at Igor but the environment did not allow him to. Czar, who had been destroying everything, began to narrow the encirclement toward Leeha in an instant. Of course, being surrounded was nothing short of frightening.

“-These crazy moth bastards——-!”

Kuoooong——!

Leeha and Koma roared together. Koma’s roar froze the movements of some of the Czar members. It was the abnormal status ‘fear’.

Following that, Leeha also cast a skill. Delicate hand movements and Eagle’s Eye. The Black Bass cried, the hummingbird screechs, and the needle gun shouted. As Leeha shot each of them one by one Czar’s members died.

In the first place, it was hard to believe that one person could shoot that much, and it was difficult to dodge with body reaction unless they were at Igor’s level.

Czar’s members, who had been subjected to such an absurd attack, tried to hide behind the building, but Leeha did not miss them. The eagle pulled out the meerkat out of the burrow and tore it apart. Pooook-! A Czar’s member’s arm was cut and stumbled for a moment before turning gray.

‘What- One shot, one kill……’

Czar’s members and Igor, whose stats rose with the power of demons, could not help but click their tongues at Leeha’s crazy skills. In the face of Leeha’s cold anger, their burning momentum could only be extinguished.

“Good. Back off! Step back! Get that bastard!”

Despite being shocked, neither the Czar members nor Igor were discouraged. As Leeha raised his Black Bass again, a frivolous voice was heard from the other side of the corner.

“Kahahaha! Is that it? Is that the lord? If I catch him, will I become the lord of the castle?”

“Shut and and work with us, Crowley.”


“Heheng, there’s nothing to be afraid of as long as you have demonic power. Besides, this place- the ingredients here are all over the place!”

Hiiiik-! Crowley, wearing sunglasses, picked up a vial and threw it.

The vial shattered when it hit the rubble of a destroyed building Suddenly, a small amount of the solution spilled out and hit the stone. It also touched a tree.

Kudodok, kudodok……. The ingredients started sticking together, making an unpleasant noise.

Leeha was able to recognize it gradually taking shape. The materials were mixed and the appearance was unsightly, but if it was that size and the power it naturally possessed, it would not be funny at all.

Huwoooo

The golem was 14m in size and it felt more like a robot.

“……Ah…… it’s really making me tired for only just the first day.”

‘I thought it wasn’t that guy, but-’

Kuuuuung, its weight seemed to shake the earth with just one step. Besides, the giant golem isn’t the only bothersome thing.

‘Crowley and Faust are good at magic. Not only the undead but also the gnomes themselves are also able to use magic, there’s also the chimeras. No, not only the chimeras, but also Czar, who reorganized the battle lines, and Igor, who leads them.’

The third in the ranking and the Russian army led by him was only a ‘part’ of the Demon King’s army. In order to push out some power, Leeha threw all kinds of skills and bullets, including his soulmate Koma.

What would happen if all the power started rushing in?

Imagining the intimidating feeling of the giant golem and the overwhelming power of the enemy made Leeha regain his composure. The only thing that he would get with dealing with this situation with anger is death. And what if he died now?

‘Gaza city will disappear from the map. damn it…’

He had to rally the surviving Gaza Knights and counter, but it was too late for that. The enemies were deep in the city and there was not much room for Leeha to move around.

Was there any help around? Gaza City was within Minis. It would take a long time for Fibiel’s reinforcements to arrive.

What, how much, and how far could Leeha go?

‘How far could I take it?’

Click, Leeha quickly fired one shot. As large as it is, his action was clearly visible. It was a speed that could not be called slow by any means, but it was enough for Leeha to respond.

Baaaaaang——-! With a loud shout, the golem’s chest cracked and smashed. A mix of stones and tree debris flowed down, but that was all.

‘I even caught the brass golem in one shot…. Does it mean it is stronger than a field boss? As long as it is a golem it should have a core-’

Leeha did not know which part of the golem should he shoot. After that, it was as Leeha had worried about. After firing one or two shots, a grrrrrr sound was heard from the alley behind Leeha’s current location as well as the alley beside it. It meant that he was fully surrounded by the chimeras and undead.

‘Damn it…’

Using the stabilizer and his right hand to support the Black Bass, Leeha took out the hummingbird with his left hand and aimed it at the surroundings. Enemies literally surrounded him at all sides and did not come closer, but could get to him at any moment. Of course, it was not because they were afraid of Leeha.

“Are you that Ha Leeha?”

It was then that a voice came from beyond the giant golem. The owner of the voice could not be seen, but Leeha knew his identity.

“Faust!”

Leeha uttered his name calmly but with anger.

*** “The voice is still alive.”

“You crazy bastards, what did I do to you that you came here?”

“Huh, oh my, oh my. This is the attitude of humans. They only remember how they suffered and are completely unaware of the damage they had done. You don’t know what you did to me?”

“Did I kill a bastard like you in the Marching Plains? Since I was also on a quest, isn’t that natural? Even revenge like this because of that-”

“It isn’t the only one. I couldn’t forget the dragon either. You interrupted my quest and took away my things. Wouldn’t you be the same if I interrupted your quest and took away your things?”

During the Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh quest. It was Faust who had been instructed by Bluebeard to steal the red dragon’s intact corpse.

However, while Leeha interfered, it was Bailephus who took Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s dragon heart and threw it away.

Faust even pointed that out.

“You damned bastard.”

Besides, Igor and Crowley had already made it clear. Leeha will be the ‘castle lord’ of this place.

‘There was no continental notification. How did they know so quickly? Could it be that someone from ‘outside the table’…?’

The demon king’s army, including Faust, already knew which castle Leeha had been granted exclusive rights to commercial activity. That was less than two hours ago.

It was natural for Leeha to think about the hidden enemy during the national war.

(To be continued…)
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 “Kek, this lizard dude is so stupid because he only deals with corpses! He has little communication with people so-”

“Shut it, Crowley”

Crowley’s excited voice came from right next to Faust.

‘Damn it, I thought he would show his face when I talk to him.’

There was a reason Leeha shouted Faust’s name other than asking why. Regardless of the reason, the city was already destroyed, but what did it matter now?

He only needed one shot to drive the bullet into the head of the person on the other side of the golem. However, it was not possible to snipe the target beyond the tall bloated giant golem from his current position.

Grrrr……. As the chimeras approached, the flames in Koma’s body grew stronger.

Of course, it was enough to stop them in their tracks. It was to the extent that the chimeras trembled from the flames and retreated little by little.

‘I can’t run away anyway. In the worst case, I would have to lose my life, but…’

When that happened the city would be destroyed. Leeha opened his friend’s window and looked to see if he had anyone to call. However, except for Ram Hwajung, everyone was logged out.

‘Byulcho said that they unified time zones for group hunts…. Did Luger and Kidd also log out at the same time?’

He could stop them for a bit if he called Ram Hwajung.

However, even if she and Leeha joined forces, they still might not be able to stop the destruction of the city. Leeha did not want to drag Ram Hwajung and take such risk.

“So, you’re going to destroy the whole city?”

“No, there’s no need to destroy everything.”

“What? After all this chaos-”

“It could become our base, so why would we destroy it? Think about it.”

“What?”

Faust’s voice trembled for a moment. Base? After destroying the city, are they going to grow the strength of the Demon King’s army from the ruins?

However, Leeha’s thoughts were wrong.


“Aren’t you a user who had gone through a lot of battles? You’re also an outsider……. You are strong.”

“What are you talking-”

“Why don’t you think about coming on our side? Then you might be able to manage this city well.”

Faust tried to persuade Leeha. To join the Demon King’s army, or to be more precise, to be the Demon King’s minion.

“You mean to join the Demon King? Under Bluebeard?”

“Hohoho, don’t overestimate yourself Ha Leeha. That’s a bad habit. How dare you try to be under the count. To be more accurate, it is ‘below me’.”

“You want me to be under you? Do you think I am crazy? Bring me Bluebeard. If I can talk to him, I might try.”

As Leeha finished talking, giggles erupted from the surroundings. It was a complete mockery.

“Your joke isn’t even funny. Do you think someone like you is equal to the count?”

“Idiot, after you became a part of the Demon King’s army, did you lose your human dignity? Seeing that you keep calling the monster count-nim, I don’t think you have a soul either. Ah! Did you tell me not to overestimate myself? Don’t underestimate yourself. That’s not a good habit either.”

“……Don’t say anything you will regret, Ha Leeha. It’s better for you to be polite right now.”

At least Faust’s keen senses were genuine. Because Leeha was just spouting off anything he could think of.

Joining the Demon King’s army? That was something that never even crossed Leeha’s mind.

However, he forcibly opened his mouth because he knew full well that if he dragged on the conversation and said even one more word, there would be a chance of finding a way out for himself.

“Okay, what will happen if I went under you? Will you make me stronger?”

“Well, it’s simple. You have been to war, so you should know. I will give you order, and you carry them out. I will give you a reward. You can tell by looking at the golem right now, right?”

Crowley also meant to become stronger by receiving the power of the Demon King’s army. Although he was an alchemist who made many iron golems, he had never created such a gigantic golem.

“Then show yourself. We’re not going to have a proper conversation until we see each other’s face.”

They couldn’t come out. Leeha knew. Leeha looked at the skill window, checked his weapons, and calculated everything that he could do.

“Kek, anyone other than this rotten corpse can do it. Shall we make an example with Czar’s grunts? Huh?”


“Kyahaha, grunt? grunt? This messy-haired bastard thinks we’re pushovers. They’re my men, not yours. You better shut up before I break your skinny neck.”

Crowley spoke and Igor responded. The hierarchy within the Demon King’s army had not yet been properly established. Leeha inwardly thanked them for that. They provided much needed time as they kept each other in check and chattered. He finally found a ray of hope.

‘However, it is doubtful whether it will be possible and go as I expected. But. I have to.’

It was a situation that Leeha had already experienced several times. It was not that he could do it. It was that he had to do it.

“I will send our men. After the ceremony, you will be on our side too. I think you know very well what would happen to Gaza city if you fight back.”

After hearing Faust’s voice, one of Czar’s members finally walked heavily toward Leeha. With the rugged golem and users in front. Swarms of chimera on both sides and the strengthened undead in the rear. It wasn’t easy in any of the directions, but the silence will be Leeha’s escape.

‘Hallucination: Bahamut.’

Leeha quietly cast a skill.

He felt an enormous amount of mana drained from his body.

Hwaaaaa…….

“Oh, wh-what is that?! I would have told you what would happen if you bastard fought-”

A white light came out of Leeha’s body. A white light that seemed to emanate from the sun exploded as if to devour Gaza City.

“-back…”

Flap–

flap—–

The flapping wings sounded slowly.

It was so ridiculous that the wings could support such a colossus, but there was a very fitting relaxed expression.

It did not speak and it did not use magic.

It didn’t even rush.

The creature had an atmosphere that could overwhelm everything on earth just by ‘existing’.


What appeared in Gaza City’s sky was a platinum dragon.

“Ohhhhh……

“What kind of dragon… is that- I have never seen it before-”

“Is there such a huge dragon? No way.”

Its body, which had two wings attached in a balanced way, was much larger than that of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. Bailephus and Blaugrunn before his death combined would be barely visible.

Covering its massive body were scales, as if they were silver or white, transparent and hard at the same time, reflected the sunlight and shimmered.

『Who dares touch my family?』

The platinum dragon Bahamut quietly opened his mouth. Everyone’s eyes turned to the sky where the dragon was.

‘W-wh-what happened? what are you going to do, Faust!’

‘You need to shut your mouth so that I can think.’

Crowley and Faust stood still. Even the NPCs and users who barely survived and ran away were wide-eyed and focused on the dragon in the air, so it must have been a great fear for those who faced the dragon.

‘Igor. In case of danger, escape immediately. You must not die.’

‘Kuhuhut, don’t worry. I can take care of myself. You guys do your best.’

Czar’s personnel directly stepped forward and erected as a six-walled wall in front of Igor. Even if they sacrificed a few of them who were still less than level 200, they were determined to save as much as rankers, the pride of Russia.

‘Damn it, why did a dragon suddenly appear? Chiyou never said anything about this.’

Faust frowned and looked up at the platinum dragon. If his level was low or he was ignorant, he would have attacked.

However, he was now a soldier of the Demon King’s army who had experienced fear. He feared Alexander, who rode a gold dragon and stirred the continent.

Even if they didn’t know the name Bahamut, everyone felt that the dragon in front of them would never be weaker than the gold dragon.

“Who are you? Why do dragons intervene in human affairs.”

『I am the platinum dragon that protects Ha Leeha, Bahamut. I will never forgive anyone who lays hands on my family.』

“Does that mean Leeha became a dragon knight? We all know he is not, so how could that be?”

Faust wanted to go out boldly, but he couldn’t utter the right words.

『Last warning. Everyone get lost.』

Hearing Bahamut’s grave voice, he took a step backward without realizing it, regardless of the user or NPC.

Even in the midst of that, only a few people stood upright. One of them, Faust, quietly glared at Bahamut over the rugged golem.

‘Is it really a dragon? No, something is weird. It’s different. It’s different from any dragon I know.’

He was with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, albeit briefly. He knew the truth of the gold dragon very well. At least, as far as he knew, there had never been a case in which a dragon was so benevolent.

Faust caustiously conveyed a whisper to those around him.

-Everyone, prepare to retreat. However, if my attack words, we will catch the dragon. That is a welcome possibility. It may not be able to attack us physically.

It was a thought that only Faust, 8th in the world rankings, was a non-physical occupational user, and had seen more mental-type magic rather than orthodox attack-type magic.

‘If it’s an illusion, it will disappear as soon as it’s confirmed that it doesn’t exist. That is, when my attack goes through- or when it’s confirmed that it could not attack us.’

The white lizard flicked its tongue and started casting a skill. Just in time, Bahamut slowly descended to the ground.

『Are you sure you don’t want to leave! Will you back off only after tasting fire!』

Hearing Bahamut’s last cry, Faust was certain. If it really was a dragon, it would not have given a warning before spewing fire!

“Bone-”

『Heuuuuuup-!』

Just as he was about to chant, Bahamut inhaled. It lowered its head to the ground as if trying to blow away everything on the floor!

『Hwaaaaaaaa-

—–!』

Bahamut opened his mouth and turned his head. Towards both sides.

What came out was yellow and red flames. It was a dragon’s breath, so realistic and vividly colored flames spewed out.

“Grrrrrr!”

“Grrrrrrrr!”

And the fire burned the chimeras.

Not only were they in pain, but their bodies actually expanded and exploded, and all of the acidic venom evaporated and they died.

Faust was more surprised than anyone else.

It was able to attack!?

Explos-”

He had to cut his own words off, because he would have died if he didn’t!

Faust’s brain managed to control his mouth.

Tsss, tsss, tsss- Retreaaaaaat!”

Shaaaaaaa-!

Scrolls were simultaneously ripped apart everywhere.

The Demon King’s army users retreated and disappeared in less than 3 seconds. The upright attitude was certainly that of the powerful.

When even Faust disappeared, the undead that lost their mana supply turned to dust- and broke down into the earth.

After the Demon King’s army disappeared and the undead were destroyed, the only thing left was the chimeras, creatures that were outside of the range of mana.

“Grrrrr……

Fire continued to spew out from Bahamut’s mouth toward the remaining chimeras. Until the last one was destroyed.

『Huuu….』

After the death of the chimeras that could escape, Bahamut sighed loudly.

And after a while, the huge body disappeared without a trace. No, there were traces.

The one who stood where Bahamut’s mouth used to be.

“Hwaa…… I barely made it.”

Leeha, who was holding a strange object, was barely breathing.

(To be continued…)
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『Illusion: Bahamut』

Description: Allows you to create an illusion of the platinum dragon Bahamut. The appearance of the legendary leader of the metal dragons makes it impossible for ordinary monsters to look up.

But be careful, attacks will pass through illusions, and the attack of the illusion is also an illusion. When the target realizes that Bahamut’s attack do not work on them, Bahamut’s illusion will disappear as well. After that, all that remains is the fierce anger of those deceived!

This is a gift and test from Bahamut to his family….

Effect: Summon and control the illusion of Bahamut

Mana: 800

Duration: 1 hour or when an attack passes through the illusion

(When canceled by detection, nearby monster’s stats increase by 100%)

Cooldown: 24 hours

“I will send our men. After the ceremony, you will be on our side too. You know very well what would happen to Gaza City if you fight back.”

Just as Faust opened his mouth, Leeha remembered that skill. It was what he gained after becoming a part of Bahamut’s family.

It was a skill that could summon his illusion!

‘There’s no grade and level? Is it telling me to use it as it is? Besides, the explanation is feeble…… What kind of gift is this…?’

However, Leeha did not have the luxury to complain.

Soon, Faust would send a member of Czar, and Leeha was in a situation where he needed to make a forced choice.

To avoid that, he had to use the skill.

‘The illusion cannot attack…. Additionally, the illusion will disappear if it gets attacked.’

In other words, if he can’t get rid of all the enemies with just one illusion, the stats of the monsters will rise.

Could it be said that it was fortunate that it didn’t apply to users? However, there were already too many monsters around to be relieved.


‘The chimeras and Faust’s summons will become stronger. Damn it!! If only the illusion could use Bahamut’s breath- no, breath?’

Leeha’s mind started to spin.

In any case, it meant that if illusion didn’t get attacked, Leeha wouldn’t be caught! In other words, didn’t that mean that they could not distinguish attacks by appearance?

If that’s the case? Could they be tricked?

Step, step, step!

A member of Czar had already started approaching Leeha. There was no room to think any longer. As soon as the skill was cast, Leeha’s crystal ball was activated.

‘Hallucination: Bahamut. And crystal ball……. To Bottleneck’s Smithy.’

Hwaaaa……!

‘After summoning, look at the golem and Faust and threaten them to leave. However, don’t attack!’

By the time Leeha finished the command, Bahamut’s huge body floated in the sky.

“Oh, wh-what is that?! I would have told you what would happen if you bastard fought-”

Flap, flap-!

When they heard the flapping wings, and everyone’s eyes turned to the dragon, Leeha had already disappeared from Gaza City.

With Bahamut, which filled the sky of Gaza City, in front of them, no user focused their attention on Leeha, who was less than the size of Bahamut’s foot.

“Bottleneck-ssi! Bottleneck-ssi!”

“W-what?”

Bottleneck, who was hammering, stopped his hand and stared blankly at Leeha. Leeha ran into the Bottleneck smithy in a hurry.

“Hu, I got lucky! I was nervous thinking that you moved back to Hell’s Anvil.”

“It’s because the elder’s meeting hasn’t concluded- where are you going? This guy! Do you think this is your house?”

“Please stop! Where’s the stuff? What I asked you to make!”


Bottleneck quickly put down his equipment and ran to Leeha, but Leeha shook off even Bottleneck’s hands and rummaged through the forge.

“Ah, I found it! It’s this, right?”

And finally, Leeha grabbed the object carefully hanging on the rack in the corner without hesitation.

“Not yet! I mean, the deadline isn’t over yet, and if you carry it around, you might get in trouble-”

“I don’t have the time to argue right now! Anyway, thanks, I will tell you what’s lacking after testing it, so please fix it then!”

“Hey, you son of a bitch! A complicated thing like that will explode once you touch it incorrectly-”

“Summon!”

『Appear』

Description: You are soul-bound to your partner dragon, and you can go to your partner’s side without any restrictions.

Effect: Move to your partner’s location

Mana: 150

Cooldown: 1 hour

Syaaaaaat-!

Leeha’s body disappeared in an instant. Bottleneck’s body stumbled and fell to the floor as he tried to grab a hold of Leeha and take back the item.

“-……. You fool!”

“What is it, boss?!”

“Are you okay?”

The Beard brothers stopped working at the sudden uproar and ran, but they couldn’t figure out what was going on.

“……He’s a damned bastard anyway.”

Bottleneck, who had been lying on his back as he fell, grumbled quietly.


『Kyuu! Kyu!』

“Uwah! Blaugrunn-ssi! I know you’re happy to see me, but I’m busy right now, so wait a minute!” Leeha appeared in Gaza City again, not far from where he was earlier. Blaugrunn, whom Leeha had told to hide in a safe place at the beginning of the battle, was there.

As soon as he saw Leeha, blaugrun rubbed his soft scales, but Leeha didn’t have the time to enjoy it.

‘Yeah, the best strategy is to leave it as it is, but Faust is also a ranker. I should be glad that it’s not too late.’

Bahamut flapped his huge wings in the air, and the soldiers of the Demon King’s army glared at Bahamut.

It was the best-case scenario to get them out only with Bahamut’s threat, but the situation did not happen according to Leeha’s wishes.

‘Okay, get down slowly. Get down to the floor with a loud scream.’

『Are you sure you don’t want to leave?! Will you back off only after tasting fire!』

When Leeha’s new command was entered, Bahamut began to move according to instruction.

Flap—–F-lap—–!

After Bahamut landed on the ground with just a couple of flaps of his wings, Leeha ran at full speed.

‘Udadadada-! I can’t be late! Now prepare to release your breath!’

Together with Blaugrunn, they rushed out from the corner of the building and disappeared into Bahamut’s illusion. No one found out.

At the same time, Leeha uttered

 a new command.

‘Target the chimera with the breath!’

“Bone-”

『Huuuul-!』

It was at that time that Faust tried to cast a spell to distinguish between illusion and reality.

Digging in between Faust’s casting, Bahamut, who had landed on the floor, took a big breath and spat it out again.

The illusion breathed into the alley where the chimera was!

Inside Bahamut’s illusion, Leeha looked outside with a translucent feeling.

In line with the illusion of Bahamut’s actions, Leeha took out the item he had brought from Bottleneck’s smithy and held it.

As soon as Blaugrunn saw it, he flapped his wings and slapped Leeha’s cheek.

『Kyuu! Kyuuuu, kyuu!』

It looked like a vacuum cleaner. There was a body, hose, and spout.

But it wasn’t a vacuum cleaner. It was much smaller in size, but its value was unimaginable in Middle Earth.

The outer skin of the body, hose, and snout were also not ordinary metal.

It was made of Orichalcum, a metal with the ability to control mana. A soft light shone across the surface of the orichalcum.

“Shh! I know, I’m sorry for using it without permission, please forgive me!”

Leeha could fully understand why his partner was making a fuss.

What made the surface of orichalcum shine? It was because the thing in the small pocket was Blaugrunn’s ‘dragon heart’.

『Kyuu, Kyuuu- kyu』

By the time Blaugrunn rushed towards Leeha, Bahamut’s illusion finally opened its mouth.

While paying attention to the bronze dragon hatchling that messed his hair, Leeha didn’t miss the timing.

‘Goooooo-!’

Bahamut’s mouth and the muzzle pointed in the same direction. Leeha pulled the trigger at the same time the illusion opened its mouth, click!

『Hwaaaaa————!』

Leeha pulled the trigger and the orichalcum door opened.

Hidden within it is a dragon heart that continuously sucked mana, and that was also the dragon heart containing the mana that made the dragon’s breath.

At the same time as the mana was released, the bronze dragon’s scales, bzzzt-, created energy.

Normally, the breath energy generated from the dragon scale and mana should be mixed to emit a perfect brain breath.

However, it cannot be completed with only one scale!

One by one the scales clicked and responded to the dragon heart’s mana and sent out sparks!

‘But this is exactly what I wanted!’

What Leeha wanted was the spark.

There was a dragon scale that acted as a spark plug, and there was the dragon heart mana that acted as a combustible agent.

What would the effect be if those two things come together? Will it come true as he thought?

Leeha thought about Bottleneck and put his hand on the item.

It was now time to check if the thing that Bottleneck was worried about would appear.

Puwaaaaaah

——

Bright yellow flames erupted from Bahamut’s mouth.

This was what Leeha wanted from the moment he first saw the chimera. The devil’s weapon, which was completely conceived after receiving the items from Blaugrunn, had a lethal effect that was beyond Leeha’s expectations

“Grrrrrr!”

“Grrrrrrrr!”

Chimeras were weak to fire. Tssss, the chimeras burned with unpleasant sound effects and smoke.

‘There’s no explosion. I might get caught up. But I can’t scroll every time.’

Then how can someone who is not even a mage breathe fire?

The answer was this.

“Everyone! Retreaaaaaaat!”

Faust and the Demon King’s soldiers had no choice but to run away.

While watching the first 『Flame Thrower』 in Middle Earth, the effect was proven.

『Heroic Flamethrower with ‘Blaugrunn’s Heart’』(27%)〉

Damage: 3,000/second

Range: 70m

Duration: 100 seconds at full dragon heart.

Requirement: –

Description: ‘It’s a demonic weapon, there’s no greater pain than caustic pain…… A weapon made by the Blacksmith Bottleneck using the heart and scales of the adult dragon Blaugrunn.

It converted breath energy into an ignition source and used that mana as a combustion agent to emit fire. Even if Leeha used it until the duration ended, the dragon heart would automatically be recharged.

Along with the golem, all of the demon king’s army minions disappeared. Leeha scattered the remaining flames at the few remaining chimeras.

In front of the unbelievable damage of 3,000 per second, and in front of the fire-type attack that is incompatible with chimera, gibrid’s toys could no longer hold out and turned gray into black.

Rip—— rip—–!

Shyuuuu, shyuuu!

When Leeha removed his finger from the trigger, the flame that had been rekindled intermittently, gradually disappeared.

The flame that leaked out gradually faded.

“Huhaaaa…… I barely made it.”

Barely enduring that he that his legs that his legs are about to give up.

However, it wasn’t over.

They were only forced to retreat by using the new weapon that used a dragon heart and the new skill obtained from Bahamut.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Damn it…’

I couldn’t even kill them.

No, killing them wouldn’t automatically restore the already destroyed city.

“Ugh…… ugh, save- save me.”

“Call a priest! There’s a patient here! Priiiiiest!”

“Arghhh, mamaaaaaaa!”

“Please heal me! The poison, the poison isn’t going away. Please!”

There were low-level players crying everywhere. The place that clamored with users and NPCs alike was no longer the same.

The city that had been swept away in battle and was half-destroyed lay in front of Leeha’s eyes.

『Kyu! Kyuuu!』

Blaugrunn’s behavior of making a fuss for a while calmed down.

The place he pointed at with his wings was the street where the injured were wallowing The bronze dragon hatchling was instructing Leeha to rescue the injured.

“As expected, I don’t know if you have knowledge or how well your communication works, but at least your heart is the same as before. Let’s go quickly!”

『Kyuuuu!』

Flap-flap-!

As soon as Blaugrunn sat on his shoulder, Leeha started running.

“Ugh……”

“Ow, ugh-”

“Leg……. My leg……!”

There were NPCs whose forearms were blown off, and there were NPCs whose knee bones had turned 180 degrees.


Leeha bit his lip softly.

As he faced the horrors of the battlefield that he had seen and learned in the military, a more realistic scene in front of him, Leeha lost his mind again. Bombed cities in the Middle Eastern countries were exactly like this.

“Damn it…… this is completely…”

Expressing sadness was a waste of time at the moment.

Leeha hurriedly took out the potions from his bag and helped the survivors up.

Leeha did not have a lot of emergency supplies, in the first place they were prepared for emergencies and were rare and special, so each one was extremely effective.

Leeha was aware that they were expensive high-end products that he wouldn’t even drink even if his HP had significantly lost, but Leeha did not care about it right now.

Is saving potions more important than saving the NPCs?

Leeha did not care about that either.

It was because Leeha felt pity for the people dying in front of him, which he had also experienced in the real world, and he did not differentiate between the users and NPCs.

Chwaak, Leeha approached a fallen NPC and bent his knees to help him.

“Hello! Are you awake? Sir, open your eyes!”

There was only one thought in Leeha’s head.

‘I have to save as many people as possible.’

It didn’t matter what role they originally played in Gaza City.

To Leeha, the true Lord of Gaza City, all of them were like family.

“Ugh……”

“Are you okay? Drink this right now!”

When Leeha handed the potion bottle, the NPC held the bottle with trembling hands. He managed to open the lid and slowly swallowed one or two sips.

“Here- here- Save me too!”


“W-wait a minute! Here, a potion.”

However, he couldn’t devote all his time to just one person. Even as he put the potion bottle to the wounded man’s mouth, the urgent cries continued to the extent that another injured person around him looked for something.

Leeha handed over another rare potion bottle, and if the NPC hurriedly drank it all, he would surely get well.

And be completely cured to normal.

“Gulp, gulp-”

“Don’t drink it all!”

“Puheub! W-what? Yes?”

Therefore, Leeha took the potion bottle and stopped him.

“Don’t drink it all!”

“That- Well, you came here to save me……”

As soon as he took three sips of the rare potion, the NPC who had recovered enough to talk showed a dumbfounded expression.

However, Leeha had a good reason.

“I am here to save you! However, the potions are limited! It’s a first aid! It’s only for first aid. When you get a bit better, you should go to a priest! I know all of you are injured, but for now, please think of living together with the people around you!”

The number of injured people was too many to count.

However, Leeha only had 10 bottles. Before the NPC could respond, Leeha opened his mouth again.

“Those who can move, please help the injured around you! Come here and share the potion! And for those who could move to some extent, please gather hardwood sticks and tough fabrics! I’m going to make a splint and crutches! Please move quickly! Your actions will save your friends and this city!”

Just because he was a sniper did not mean Leeha only learned how to shoot.

Leeha was also taught basic first-aid methods during his training as a non-commissioned officer.

‘Damn it, I don’t know if it could be used like this.’

Leeha didn’t know if it would actually help with HP recovery, but it was better than nothing!


Under Leeha’s positive and active instructions, the NPCs began to move one by one. It was more than just the ‘dignity’ buff.

People with minor injuries were only given splints and crutches, and the seriously injured ones were given a small amount of potion. When they recovered, they were forced to bring in other injured people.

It was a virtuous cycle of people taking action under Leeha’s orders, depending on the extent of the injury, and using them as rescuers!

“Cardin! Come and help Ms. Lomoff on her back!”

“Ah, understood. Aunt Romanov! Wake up!”

“Can a wooden stick be this big?”

“Okay. Please get one that is as hard and straight as possible!”

“Lift up! There are still people down here!”

“Lever!! Find something to use as a lever!”

What to do and how to do it.

No one refused Leeha’s orders, which were a little forceful, given in a systematic and clear snappy tone.

In the alleys of Gaza City, where only moaning and screaming sounded, human voices gradually began to be heard.

“User? Are you a user?”

“Ah, yes.”

“I-I am poisoned, do you have an antidote potion? No, even with that- my leg was struck with chimera poison-”

A user dragging one leg barely approaching spoke to Leeha.

No, he had already lost more than half of his field of view, so he couldn’t see where he was standing, so his focus was a little off.

“Is it detox? So, what I have now…. I have two potions to recover from abnormal status conditions, but the antido-”

Poison was different from other status abnormalities.

While the user trembled in fear as his HP was constantly getting eaten away, and while Leeha was flustered, blaugrun, who was on Leeha’s shoulder, flapped its wings and flew.

“Huh? Blaugrunn-ssi? What-”

『Kyuuuu一一!』

Hwaaa… I

Before Leeha could finish speaking, blaugrun closed his eyes and trembled.

Blue-green light emitted from the bronze dragon’s body. The light wrapped around the poisoned area like a blanket glowed once and soon disappeared.

It was perfect magic.

“Wow, amazing…. Were you a summoner? My HP has also been restored. What is your pet? I’ve seen a ride or an attack pet, but it is my first time seeing a healing pet. The amount of healing is also great! Thank you so much. Thank you!”

In addition to detoxification, it also heals to full health!

However, Leeha was more surprised than the treated users.

“Blaugrunn-ssi……?”

『Kyu! Kyu!』

Blaugrunn was delighted at Leeha’s call, and then flew back to his shoulder fluttering as if tired.

‘It can use magic?’

However, Leeha did not ask. If Leeha asked Blaugrunn now, it would only tilt its head like it didn’t understand.

There was something more important than checking Blaugrunn’s condition.

“Really, thank you. I’ll be sure to pay for the potion next time-”

“No, the potion was worth it. Rather, if you have time, please bring the injured NPCs scattered everywhere here.”

“Huh? NPC? Why NPC?”

This was where the difference between the general users and Leeha appeared. Leeha didn’t have to explain.

“……It’s a very important thing for me, please.”

“Oh, okay! It’s a request from my lifesaver.”

It was only natural that Leeha’s emergency rescue activity, utilizing the users and NPCs, spread throughout the city. The surrounding area suddenly resembled a field hospital.

‘But these are only first aid measures. Right now, everyone is barely moving because of my shouts, but I have to truly heal them- where the hell is the city manager?’

A couple of hours have passed since Leeha started his emergency rescue activities. However, there were still a lot of people groaning like they were crushed by gravel.

There was only one and a half bottle of potion left.

He only had 10 bottles from the very beginning, and he had already saved more than 100 people, but Leeha was not satisfied.

“There is a survivor of the Gaza knights over there. Shall we go get a stretcher?”

“The Ahlo Temple of a neighboring city has also been contacted! They said they will send healing personnel soon!”

Of course, Leeha couldn’t complain at the moment.

The healed NPCs reported and were waiting for Leeha’s next instructions. It was because they knew who created and commanded this place.

“Okay. But only with four people, as going too far can loosen the structure on the other side. And if I can’t greet the temple people of the neighboring city, tell them not to wait for me, and to start healing as soon as they arrive, and over there too- hmm?”

A group of people entered from the other side of Leeha’s eyes, who was giving them instructions.

The NPCs were cautiously lowering their heads as they saw the people running hurriedly.

The front-most were a few knights without a scratch on their shields. Following them gave off the smell of mages, priests, and civil servants.

“W-who are you?! Are you by any chance from the capital? This is what happened because the idiot Minis couldn’t do their jobs properly! When you return to the capital, take me as well and I will go to the royal palace! How, how can I be the lord of the castle in such a dangerous city-”

And there was someone in the middle, a fleshy NPC as if they were being escorted, sprang forward and started complaining.

Unlike the normal injured NPCs, Leeha immediately knew who the man with no wrinkles on his clothes was.

『Kyuu.』

“Yeah, I know.”

Blaugrunn’s didn’t look good either. Naturally, Leeha also understood. As long as he was appointed as the lord of the castle, he should never treat his own life lightly.

They should have guards.

They could also hide when an intense battle begins. Just because one was in charge didn’t mean they had to step up and take the lead.

‘But it is different now.’

The situation had already ended.

Did he just stand by and hide to the extent that he didn’t know what was happening?

As far as commanding from the rear, this was within the range of understanding, but it’s a different story for leaving the battlefield!

“Are you the lord of Gaza City?”

Leeha asked calmly but in a disapproving voice

Perhaps it was thanks to the dignity buff, except for the chubby NPC, everyone lowered their heads.

“Cough, that’s right. I am the cousin of Count George Rodem Almos, the lord of Castle Almos, from the Almos family, who was appointed by the royal palace to manage Gaza City, the most important city of Minis-”

Even Lerik, the vice-minister of finance, lowered his head toward Leeha, but surprisingly, the chubby NPC did not lower his head toward him

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Does that mean his reputation exceeds 3000? No, I need to clean the house.’

This was because NPCs, unlike users, have additional effects obtained just by being a noble.

He didn’t even listen to what Leeha said.

Leeha only asked if he was the city lord of Gaza, but he could guess the rest just by looking at the boasts that popped out one after another.

“-he says. Cough, are you from the capital?”

At first, he used respectful words, but after he revealed his family, his words immediately changed.

Leeha thought this was better. The more relaxed a person is, the easier they are to deal with.

Among the injured, who were still groaning in pain, Leeha opened his bag and carefully took out a piece of paper.

“I am the first-ranked contributor during the previous national war, the recipient of Fibiel’s Medal of Honor, and the authority directly entrusted to the king regarding the exclusive rights and practical administrative management of Gaza city-”

He had to fight authority with authority.

“Ancient Dragon Slayer Ha Leeha.”

Like right now.

From the unknown NPC noble to the surrounding NPCs, and to the user whom Blaugrunn had saved, everyone’s jaw dropped on the floor.

Ha-ha-ha- Ha Leeha

Leeha’s name simultaneously resounded through Gaza City.

*** “T-that Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Right, that person! I’ve seen a montage on the marching plains! Sniper Ha Leeha!”

“You did us a great deal of damage in the previous-”

“Shh! ‘We’ are now citizens of Fibiel, you can’t say things like that!”

Some of the NPCs remaining in Gaza City were Fibiel citizens, but there were also those who were from Minis.


The authority to manage the city was transferred from Minis to Fibiel, giving them a choice, and the NPCs who refused to leave their hometown remained as they were, even if their country changed.

The percentage was by no means low, so a significant number of NPCs belonged to Minis and only became Fibiel’s citizens a few days ago.

In other words, it meant that Gaza City was a good city to live in even within Minis.

“Ha-Ha Leeha?”

“That’s right. Here’s the document. Check it out.”

Leeha handed over the document to the nominal lord of the castle.

“Ha Leeha, no, I received a call from Lerik-nim that you would be arriving soon, but-”

His eyes did not trust Leeha at all as he received and examined the document. It was incomprehensible that he was set up as a typical aristocratic noble NPC.

It was unimaginable for him to step up on his own and fight off the intruders, or help the injured commoners.

“If you don’t believe me, try contacting commander-in-chief Granville. No, it would be a good idea to bring Granville-ajussi here. You might believe that I am Ha Leeha if you bring Commander Granville, and Commander Burke here!”

Leeha gradually began to get angry.

“T- th- that, of course, doesn’t that mean, as an individual, you have proved yourself during the war that you have gained monopoly for the commercial activity, but why, in this place-”

“In this place? What kind of place is this? Did you think it was such a place where you could hide behind and take care of yourself in case of danger and run away? You’re the nominal lord…… but what are you doing? You! You are the lord of this city! Where were you when the city was attacked by the Chimera, Golem, and Demon King’s army bastards!”

“W-what do you mean by that?! I’ve only been here for two days!”

Did he really think that the ‘real’ city lord, Leeha, would let him off the hook?

On the contrary, his shallow thoughts of rolling his eyes and still thinking about shirking away from responsibility were caught by Leeha.

“Have you requested reinforcements from the capital? When did the enemy invade? How long did they need to take over half of the city? Where did they invade from?”

“That- I- I didn’t face them myself, I only received a report-”

“How large was the enemy’s army? What kind of report did you receive, so you retreated without confirmation? Who made the report? What about the knights? Where were the knights?”

“That- of course……”


“You are the city lord! You weren’t able to grasp the knights even though you were already the city lord for 48 hours! There must have been reports of anomalies! Huu, good, good. Now, let’s assume that all of the preceding situations are like that. Then what about now?”

“N-now?”

“Isn’t everything over now?! Did you confirm that everything is over? When, how? When did you request rescue teams from the neighboring cities?”

“Of course- I have just figured it out, eh- so- I am about to do it-”

“It’s already been two hours since they left—!”

Leeha finally shouted.

Although he was the nominal lord, it would be after the true lord of the castle was appointed. Until then, he held all the authority over defense and management as the general manager of the city.

What did it mean when a person with such authority could not properly answer even just a single one of Leeha’s questions?

It literally meant ‘he did nothing and hid’.

When Leeha’s voice exploded, the surroundings became quiet.

“••••••I will admit that you did not have enough time to take over. It may have been difficult to stop them…… but how can you be like that after the situation was over? Stones were getting knocked over while you were hiding for your own safety! A light wound could become a serious wound and a serious wound could become death! How many lives could have been save if you started rescuing just a little bit earlier?”

He did not know how to express his emotions.

Leeha exclaimed to the NPC half crying and half angry.

Leeha ran around in all directions to save a large number of NPCs, however, the number of NPCs that died was more than the ones he saved. Because there were a lot of people who could not be saved with first aid.

Hearing those words, the face of the nominal lord of the castle distorted.

Of course, he did not feel remorse.

“Cough, you! I know Leeha-ssi is great, but I am the lord of the castle! As the general manager appointed by his highness, the King, I would like to ask you to correct your tone first.”

“Oh……. Hey.”

Even in this situation, he was still ordering people around.

Hearing the words Leeha spat out as if he was about to cry, didn’t he feel guilty at all?


“Hey? Did you just say hey to me? To me, who is the cousin of Count George Rodem Almos of Castle Almos-”

“You crazy bastard. Hey!”

Click-!

Leeha pulled the bolt of the Black Bass.

Looking a Leeha’s blazing eyes, the castle lord hurriedly hid behind the nearby knights.

“T-this guy! Are you trying to attack me, who was appointed as the lord of the castle by His Majesty? This thing, now that I see it, you’re not a war hero, you’re a rebel leader! As soon as you got the exclusive rights to the business, it’s certainly not irrelevant that they invaded, so you must-”

Baaaaang—-!

Pasasasak-!

Leeha fire at a destroyed building that was more than half collapsed.

As soon as one of the last pillars of the building was shot, the building that had managed to stand collapsed.

It was like destroying a building with a single bullet.

The city lord and the nearby NPCs’ jaws dropped again.

“There, knight! Are you a part of the Gaza Knights?”

“Aren’t you going to answer me?”

“Ah, no sir! The Gaza Knights are made of knights from Minis! I was hired to protect viscount-”

“This bastard, why are you answering? Shut your mouth!”

The viscount, the nominal lord of the castle, slapped the back of the knight who was covering his face, but the knight did not shut his mouth.

It was because the Black Bass’ barrel, colder than blue ice, was pointed at his face.

“-I am part of the private army!”

“I don’t know. I don’t know anything complicated like that. You’re also a knight. Right? You are someone who protects chivalry. Right?”

“O-o-of course!”

“But what are you just looking at? Do you think you need to escort the castle lord in this kind of situation?! All knights should patrol the outskirts of the city and investigate if there is anything dangerous! And you at the back! Aren’t you mages? Start treating the injured and dispose of the wreckage of destroyed buildings using magic! Move immediately!”

Sir, Yes, sir!

“Ah, oh, you, you guys! I hired you! Where are you bastards going? You must protect me!”

The city lord cried pitifully, but all the NPCs were already in a situation where they could not disobey Leeha’s words.

It wasn’t just because of the dignity buff.

There was no one who would not be a meek sheep in the face of a gun of far more practical and real power than that.

“You, city lord…”

“Yes?”

Leeha rolled his sleeves while tying the Black Bass again.

Leeha thought he could confront authority with authority, but admittedly his thoughts were wrong this time.

“Uh, isn’t that a chimera’s skin there? It’s dangerous, lord!”

“W-what- kuak!”

“Here! A fly! No, on the other side! Chimera skins have poison! It looks like it’s stuck!”

“Wait- Cough, wait!”

Pak, pak, pak, pak!

Sometimes, authority wasn’t even needed. It was because there was something better than law and authority.

Leeha tried to remove the chimera skin attached to the NPC lord’s body in a friendly and gentle manner.

“This! Why is it like this? Don’t take it off!”

However, it could not be separated. It was only natural. Because there really was no chimera skin stuck.

“Wait! Aak! Wait- Ha Leeha-nim-! Keuk, cough!”

The nearby NPCs barely held back their laughter and turned their heads. On the other hand, the surviving NPCs of Gaza City were relieved.

They were attacked and the city was half destroyed, but learned who the true lord of the castle was.

Dull thumps resounded incessantly until the rescuers arrived from the nearby neighboring city.

The rescue operation went smoothly. It was because no one interfered anymore, and Leeha had already laid the foundation considerably.

“Everyone with serious injuries has been evacuated. As soon as the treatment is over, they will be sent back to Gaza City.”

“You have worked hard, priest-nim.”

“It is nothing. I heard His Holiness the Pope mention Ha Leeha-nim’s name several times. I am more grateful that I was able to share even a bit of glory of the Lord with such a person.”

“Aigoo, I am more grateful that you said that.”

All NPC priests belonged to the Ezwen church.

Recently clearing the Demon King’s Army quest including Bluebeard, the name of ‘Browless and his disciples’ had spread quite a bit in Ezwen.

“Then we will continue our treatment activities at the Gaza temple for the time being.”

“Yes. I look forward to it.”

After seeing off the priests who had been dispatched to rescue, Leeha started running around busily again. Literally, only those who were on the verge of death were evacuated to the ward, and there were still many minor injuries.

‘Still, people can be cured, but what should I do with the collapsed buildings and walls?’

The reports that came in non-stop to Leeha were by no means simple.

This time, it wasn’t only the chimeras that appeared, there were also the determined Igor and Czar.

Of the total 150 members of Gaza Knights, 60 were killed and 50 more are in serious condition.

Another 30 people barely survived but had to focus on treatment for the time being. In fact, the knights were annihilated.

What about the walls?

The potions and reagents brought by Alchemist Crowley made the castle walls soft, and Faust’s undead crushed them all.

(To be continued…)
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 “Can it be fixed?”

“I don’t know how to fix it, I rather break it altogether. It’s not like we’re clearing the rubble and rebuilding it- the walls are so lumpy…”

The workers tried to dismantle the wall, but it was not easy.

“I don’t think it can be restored with any technology. It’s better to completely destroy and build from scratch-”

“How long will that take?”

“It would take at least four months to blow up everything, remove the rubble, and rebuild the walls…”

The workman lowered his head as if he were ashamed.

It meant that for four months, there would be a hole that would virtually allow the invasion of foreign enemies. During that time, fewer people would go to the city that was exposed to danger.

Walls, whose materials have been changed, buildings that have collapsed, knights who have died, and even the population that had stopped influx as news of the invasion spread.

“Haaaa……. This is driving me crazy.”

Leeha was a sniper and a musketeer.

He had a terrifying attack power of more than 30,000, however, that was of no help in fixing the castle wall.

???: Are you there? What? Isn’t it easier than you think?

In the moment that Leeha really wanted to cry, a voice rang in his head that was literally a ray of light.

Leeha: Ram Hwayeon!!!

Leeha had no choice but to call her name with sincerity.

****

A blush bloomed on Ram Hwayeon’s face as she looked through documents in Castle Dale’s office.

“Unni. Face.”

“Huh? Ah, oh. It’s nothing, Hwajung.”


Ram Hwayeon hurriedly lifted up the papers and covered her face. Ram Hwajung stared blankly at her sister with an expressionless face, then spun around in the swivel chair again.

“Ram Hwajung-nim, don’t you feel dizzy doing that?”

“Yes.”

“Cough……. Instead of doing that, you need to get used to reviewing these documents-”

“No.”

Jachung, who was by her side, struggled with Ram Hwajung’s education, but Ram Hwayeon did not notice.

Ram Hwayeon: W-what? Why are you so happy?

‘Was Ha Leeha waiting for me?’

Why?

Before she even had the time to organize her thoughts, Leeha immediately answered.

Leeha: Cough, of course! I have been thinking about you, you haven’t logged in for a while!

Ram Hwayeon’s face grew hotter. If he was with her, even her earlobes would have turned red.

Ram Hwayeon: Heung, did you think I am only playing games 24 hours a day? Chairman-nim- no, I had to log out because of my father’s business.

Leeha: As expected. Even in Ram Long group. You’re also reliable!

Ram Hwayeon: What kind of wind is blowing today? Cough, well…… seeing that you are talking like that, it looks like you have something you want to ask.

Dogun. Dogun. Dogun.

Her heart tightened trying to figure out what Leeha wanted.

What kind of thoughts did Leeha really have? Could it be that he also felt the same way as Ram Hwayeon?

Leeha: I really had a different opinion of you. What a great woman, you are.

Ram Hwayeon: What’s great about it?


Leeha: Anyway-

Thump, thump, thump!

Ram Hwayeon was so excited that she was worried that Middle Earth’s connection might go wrong, or that her strong heartbeat would cause too much strain on her body and she would be forced to log out.

Leeha: Aren’t you great at managing a city?

Ram Hwayeon: ……What? Managing the city?

And the answer that came back from Leeha was, of course, not in the direction that she wanted.

The reason Leeha waited for Ram Hwayeon in the first place was because the chimera’s weakness was fire magic.

And now that he had managed to defeat them, it was to get advice on city management.

Either way, it was not what Ram Hwayeon was expecting.

Leeha: Yes. You told me before. That it wouldn’t be easy. Isn’t that normal? Besides, Faust and Igor had just attacked the city, and the city was completely destroyed. I do not want to fight the NPCs in the middle of it….

‘Tsk, of course.’

She felt her heart sink with disappointment, but she soon came to her senses. Anyway, according to her plan, this was not the time for Ha Leeha to fall for her.

What made her choose Gaza City?

A city with a lot of income was inevitably hard to manage!

‘This is just the beginning. Whenever he encounters a problem with city management, he will come to find me, and I will make him come over by showing my greatness every time!’

That was her big picture! Ram Hwayeon snorted happily as she quickly organized the paperwork. After that, she thought about Ha Leeha’s words again.

What did Leeha just say?

Ram Hwayeon: Wait! Attacked? What do you mean the city was destroyed?

Leeha: If you have time, could you come over to Gaza City? It’s pretty complicated, so to speak.

Ram Hwayeon: I’ll go right away.


“Jachung! The paperwork is almost finished, so please finish it.”

“W-where are you going, Ram Hwayeon-nim?”

“I have to go somewhere.”

Ram Hwayeon jumped and stood up, and Ram Hwajung followed. Her younger sister, who didn’t know what she was thinking normally, had great intuition at times like this.

“I want to go too.”

“Y-you can’t, Hwajung.”

“Why not? I want to see Lee-”

“Shh! Shh! Hwajung, you and Jachung should learn how to review, approve, and finish the documents. Jachung! Take responsibility and hold onto Hwajung. I’ll come back soon!”

Shyuuk-!

“Ahh……. Me too-”

“Ah, no, Ram Hwajung-nim! You must finish this, otherwise, I will be killed by the president!”

A purple curtain was drawn over the blue-haired Ram Hwajung, who was trying to chase after her sister who disappeared in an instant.

Jachung tore up a scroll and prevented Ram Hwajung from moving through space.

“.. Oppa…”

Ram Hwajung, who confirmed Ram Hwayeon’s and Ha Leeha’s location through her friend’s window, shook her head. Jachung was reluctant to ask for the dejected young lady to study.

“Sorry. Let’s finish it quickly then you can go. Will that work?”

“Yes!”

And Jachung was indeed a veteran employee of the Ram Long group.

Seeing Ram Hwajung hurriedly run to the chair, Jachung smiled heartily.

“W-what?”

“It wasn’t Bluebeard who ran amok with the chimera in Minis.”

“What? No way? Then who was it?”

“Ah, sorry, did I say too much? I am sure that Bluebeard is somewhere else. At least this time, it is clear that Faust was appointed as the leader.”

“Bluebeard did not join? Did a user become an agent of a monster? what- not even an NPC…”

“That’s not all. Igor and Crowley were there as well. It might happen more often.”

“Oh my goodness…”

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha with an expression of disbelief.

Leeha knew that Faust joined Bluebeard and told Ram Hwayeon. Leeha, who had been through the Gaza City raid, made several hypotheses and confided the most plausible idea to her.

‘It’s clear. Faust became the trigger that drew them in. They must have used the fact that their abilities such as stats and skills would greatly increase if they joined the Demon King’s army.’

However, Leeha still had unanswered questions. How did Igor know that and come into contact with Faust?

‘In the end, all I can say is that there is someone. That bear-like bastard running rampant in the Shazrashian Federation dared to come all the way to the southernmost part of Minis? Someone must have been a middleman and told him about it.’	

Based on Leeha’s assumption, the possibilities eventually converged into one result.

A person had spread a huge net throughout the Middle Earth continent, and at the same time, a person from Minis who was familiar with the series of events that were taking place within Minis.

There was a ‘hidden hand’ that was by Ewin’s side during the national war. But who was it……?’

Leeha hadn’t felt good since then. Once the war was over, he didn’t care much after that, but after things had turned out like this, Leeha felt regretful.

It would have been nice if he somehow found them and revealed their identity.

Now, the situation had already gone out of hand.

“Y-you, how are you going to do this? Do you have any plans? Oh my gosh, I haven’t seen a city so damaged.”

“I need to repair them. That’s the only thing we can do.”

Leeha let out a sigh.

“So what……. What does Castle Dale do with external security?”

“We…… Hwajung knows everything. What kind of magic stone it is, did she make it float like a buoy and connect it with her mana? Connection? And that’s how we use the mana to create a huge fishing net. Any infiltration is blocked with it.”

After that, Ram Hwayeon continued to explain what she knew.

However, basically, that kind of magic did not appeal to Leeha at all.

Seeing that even Ram Hwayeon, also a mage, could not explain it properly, Leeha had no choice but to guess that used something that centered around items and skill.

“Le-Ram Hwajung is, after all, Middle Earth’s genius. It’s not a method that I would use. I should go.”

“Where?”	*

Leeha cut off Ram Hwayeon’s story and took out a crystal ball.

Ram Hwayeon tilted her head. After telling her to come, where will he go?

“I just realized it after calling Ram Hwayeon.”

“What are you talking about, all of a sudden? Are you just going to leave like that?!”

“Oh, and I also heard that from the pig castle lord earlier. Let’s see……. Ah done. Did it come up?”

Leeha wasn’t just playing around until Ram Hwayeon contacted him.

Even during the post-mortem process, he called the NPC lord and his aides next to him and asked about how the city management worked.

This was the first thing he figured out.

『Assistant Manager Authority』? Are you asking me to take care of you right now?”

“Wait a minute. Please take care of me for a while while I go somewhere.”

Ram Hwayeon was surprised to see the notification window in front of her.

She will be representing Ha Leeha, the de facto castle lord, and have authority over Gaza City for a while!

Leeha smiled and activated the crystal ball.

“I-I might touch the city vault-”

“It’s because I believe in Ram Hwayeon. It won’t take long. I will be back in a few hours.”

“-o-okay.”

!

Shyuuk-!

In other words, it meant that Ram Hwayeon could deal with Gaza City’s income and commercial activities for a while, but Leeha just disappeared with a warm smile.

Ram Hwayeon, who was suddenly left alone, chewed on Leeha’s last words for a long time.

‘Believe…’

The place where Leeha, who unintentionally made Ram Hwayeon’s heart flutter all day, went to Hell’s Anvil.

What Leeha realized while contacting Ram Hwayeon was that Middle Earth was an online game.

‘It’s new, but at the same time, it’s obvious. I mean it isn’t SimCity. Whether it’s managing the city or whatever!’

Online games were not meant to be played alone.

When there are reliable people around, the difficulty of playing online games drops drastically.

“Bottleneck-ajussiiiiiii!”

♦ ♦ ♦

“Damn it! What happened? Did you shoot the flamethrower!? Did it explode?!”

“Of course, it didn’t explode. I’m here because I have something to offer you.”

As Leeha took out the flamethrower from his bag, Bottleneck hurriedly inspected it.

However, contrary to his concerns, Leeha knew best that there was no problem with the item.

“What a suggestion! Again, again, you’re trying to order something weird and turn your back on me, right??! I won’t be fooled twice! Even this thing alone, if you applied that dragon heart, it would be much better and more beneficial than these magic weapons-”

“Why don’t you set up a blacksmith shop in Gaza City? The minerals you want will be free for life.”

Even Bottleneck, who started blocking his ears as soon as he heard the word ‘suggestion’ from Leeha, couldn’t help but listen to his words this time.

(To be continued…)
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 “……What did you just say?”

“I became the lord of a castle. Gaza City of Minis kingdom. No, it is now Gaza City of Fibiel kingdom. As the lord of the castle, I am making an official proposal to Hell’s Anvil’s best blacksmith.”

Leeha quietly chanted a skill name. 

‘Bargaining.’

“In this city, we promise to fully support the blacksmith Bottleneck, and provide unlimited minerals for research and development within the budget available.”

“.. You.. you. You?!”

“Of course, that’s not all. We will also provide a forge with the equipment you want and give you an official title. Bottleneck will not only be a blacksmith in Gaza City but will also be the Dwarven representative.”	”

Bottleneck’s eyes widened.

As an NPC, there was no way he could not have been aware of Leeha’s situation.

“Re…… Really? You are supporting me like that? You will give me a place, equipment, materials, and a title?”

“Yes! Cough. Wait.”

The list of a lord’s authority was displayed in Leeha’s hologram window. Ram Hwayeon was entrusted to be a proxy, but it was not a delegation, so he was still able to use his authority.

Not only did he think that he owed Bottleneck until now, but he was right about bringing him to Gaza City for the future supply of ammunition and the production of desired items.

‘Let’s see…… After mixing this authority with that- hmm, the name should have something like this.’

However, there was something more important than that. It was possible because he was a blacksmith who made various ‘tools’ rather than simply making swords or spears.

“Oh, but instead, you need to work with walls and stuff like this ‘a little bit’ and there’s something to do… can you sort that out?”

“Don’t say something ridiculous! My last name is Baumeister! My family used to be dwarves who piled stones!”

Looking at the fuming Bottleneck, Leeha smiled. Then, calmly and solemnly, he opened his mouth.

“Dwarf Bottleneck, I, as the castle lord of Gaza City, propose. Would you like to be Gaza City’s ‘Chief Engineer’?”

Returning to Hell’s Anvil was just taking back his lost place. However, being in charge of a city’s architecture and receiving unlimited support was truly an honor. Bottleneck couldn’t refuse Leeha’s proposal, which even added colorful words. He did not have much trouble deciding. It was also because of his high intimacy with Leeha.


“I, dwarf Bottleneck Baumeister, will accept the proposal of the lord of Gaza City.”

Bottleneck nodded as he held out his hand. Leeha was certain when he saw the dwarf’s face, which seemed to be possessed. What Bottleneck did not know was the trap that came along with the position Leeha had offered.

“Beard Brothers!”

“Yes! Boss!”

“Pack your bags! Hahahaha, from now on, huh?! We’re going to a big human city! From now on, we will be hitting the hammer hard while receiving unlimited support!”

Listening to the lively voice of Bottleneck, Leeha felt a little bit(?) of guilt.

He felt guilty.

‘I’m sorry, Bottleneck-ssi. But I will make sure to reward you for all your hard work!’

Chief Engineer.

The responsibilities set by Leeha were 『The repair and construction of the castle, the construction of the fortress defense system, and the production of its equipment』.

‘The possibility of Faust and his henchmen coming back is very high, so it can’t help it. I am really sorry!’

Hitting the hammer with unlimited support?

Bottleneck will have no time to do the research and development he wants in Gaza City.

Perhaps forever.

“Can we go as soon as we are ready? Well, I think I can move without any preparation……”

“Yes. I may be away for a while, but you can talk to the deputy.”

“Heu, heuheu, good. Great! Let’s go!”

Leaving behind the excited Bottleneck and Beard Brothers, Leeha logged out for a while.

Now all that remained was to put the last piece together.

‘What, did he log out? How much does he believe in me?’


Ram Hwayeon, who had been constantly looking at her friend’s window ever since Leeha disappeared, grumbled. However, her expression did not match her tone, and her expression seemed rather mild. As she thought at the end, it meant that Leeha believed in her.

“Ex-excuse me- Ram Hwayeon-nim…… do you think-”

“Isn’t it natural?! How much do you guys know when you have only been in Gaza City for two days? First of all, gather all the surviving knights, and have them figure out the patrol plan, route, and strategic weaknesses of Gaza City!”

“U-understood!”

Ram Hwayeon nervously answered the question of the knight who shattered her sweet imagination.

The knight, who was a nominal soldier of the lord, in front of Ram Hwayeon followed her orders.

“General manager! Where is the general manager? Steward!”

“Yes! I am here, deputy lord!”

“How’s the damage investigation?”

“We just finished! Eh- so – according to what we currently know, about 38% of the city, including the walls, suffered heavy damages, resulting in 68% of the city being paralyzed.”

“Shit…… they have reduced the city to the level of a town. Which one needs to be restored urgently?”

“It’s the castle wall- but- they are saying that they could not touch the walls-”

“Okay, leave it for now. The next one?”

“A-after that is related to the water, sewage, and roads, but there is a lot of debris, so the wagons are unable to carry logistics. The biggest problem is that the market function is paralyzed because the wagons cannot access the market.”

Even the NPC, which Holy Grill’s madam Ju said not to call a ‘steward’, but the city’s general manager, was just a ‘steward’ to Ram Hwayeon.

As the lord of Castle Dale, with only a few words and key points, she showed her operational abilities, and the NPCs in Gaza City were forced to declare surrender.

“Get a map.”

“Here.”

Ram Hwayeon quickly looked at the map. Paralysis of 68% of city function due to the 38% destruction of the city, meant that the destruction of a few districts caused a serious decline in city function.

It was because, as the steward had said, the market had stopped functioning. As an entrepreneur, Ram Hwayeon knew very well that a city without any economy would die instantly. Where, what, and how much can be made to maximize the city’s function?


“Except for the core personnel related to the treatment of the injured, tell all the merchants who survived can conduct business in this- this empty lot under the concept of “open-air market”. A wagon can reach this far, so urgent logistics can reach it, right?”

“……What?”

“I told you to answer with either ‘yes’ or ‘no’ whenever I ask a question, didn’t I?”

“Yes! You can!”

“The steward will be in charge of dividing the plots! It goes without saying, but food comes first. Let’s try to keep the residents from starving for two days. If you’re in a hurry, you can open the city safe. I will make the payment.”

She was like a goblin when she talked, but her intentions were good. Ram Hwayeon’s words that made sure that even commoner NPCs wouldn’t starve made the general manager NPC’s eyes slightly watery.

“Yes, my lord!”

“Heung, I am not your lord, so don’t call me like that! Let’s go.”

When Ram Hwayeon waved her hand, the NPC rushed to her.

‘Even though it’s proxy, there’s no need to show the law to the residents. If the approval of the resident is high, the lord can stay for a long time, and Leeha can be the lord for a long time…’

Of course, other people did not know that serving the commoner NPCs was just a small part of Ram Hwayeon’s big picture.

“Let’s get moving! We don’t have much time! Help from the mages will come soon, so don’t touch the big wreckage and start with the small things! Recycle as much as possible! Safety first! Quick and accurate!”

Sir, Yes Sir!

In an instant, an orderly and systematic restoration work began in Gaza City, where the work processing efficiency of more than 10 ordinary NPCs took place.

Ram Hwayeon: Jachung! Can you see where I am now? I will send you a list of necessary items, so please send it here.

Jachung: I-Items, young lady? Rather, when are you coming back-

Ram Hwayeon: We won’t be taking a loss, so don’t worry and send it. I have sent the list! Ah, and dispatch the NPCs who divide the city and send them here! I will come back on my own, so don’t worry!

-Miss?! Ah-

Tuk

Ram Hwayeon one-sidedly cut off Jachung’s whisper. It was very clear what would happen to Gaza City the moment Castle Dale’s material and manpower were dispatched as helpers with Ram Hwayeon’s knowledge. When Leeha logged out and returned to reality, it had already been two days in Middle Earth.

“……Huh? What is this?”

“Eong-ah? Isn’t it different from what you said? What invasion were you talking about? You want us to protect you from Faust and Igor?!”

It was the reason Leeha came to reality. To ask the Byulcho guild for emergency defense. Of course, Kijung readily accepted and came to create a major space travel storage point…

“Y…… Yeah……. This is Gaza City, right?”

The appearance of the city had changed to the point that even the actual owner of Gaza City did not understand.

Just two days.

For Ram Hwayeon, two days were enough to change the city.

*** “Are you here, Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Ah, yes. Hello.”

As they approached Gaza City’s castle, the guards recognized Leeha and greeted him.

‘Wow, hyung! Don’t you feel like the lord? He greeted you!’

‘I don’t know who he is! Is it because of my buff?’

‘Is that the dignity buff?’

Of course, it wasn’t like that. The NPC might have seen Leeha for the first time, but most NPCs in Gaza City already recognize and respect Leeha.

The mighty castle lord who stopped the city from being completely destroyed!

A warm castle owner who prioritizes the lives of residents even in an urgent situation!

The smart lord who always considers the convenience of the residents even in the restoration damage!

Of course, the last description was because of Ram Hwayeon, but Leeha did not know that.

“I guess there was some damage. Everyone is out of their mind”

“It’s because the damage was severe! Have you seen what happens after a tsunami or earthquake? It was at that level. The city was destroyed by a natural disaster…”

As Kijung and Leeha looked around and carefully went inside, they heard loud noises.

“So! Didn’t I tell you?! We cannot give you resources unless you finish repairing the walls!”

“Don’t be ridiculous! Where did Ha Leeha go? H-he promised, he promised! Unlimited support along with the position of Chief Engineer-”

“Ha! This is why dwarves…. Dwarf-ssi, take a good look. What does the position of Chief Engineer do!”

Hwararaj-!

The sound of paper being turned over was heard, and after a while, the dwarf started to light up.

“I was fooled again! Agaaaaaaaain-! Ahhhhh, get Ha Leeha! Ha Lee-”

“Ah……”

When Leeha turned the corner, he met some people.

To be precise, it was one human and one dwarf. Ram Hwayeon and Bottleneck looked at Leeha.

Both of them looked like they were going to kill him.

Ha Leeee-Haaaaaaaaaaaaa!!!!!

(To be continued…)
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 “Kuwaaa, w-wait! I have something to say too! Listen to me!”

Ram Hwayeon and Bottleneck rushed in and grabbed Leeha.

“Where have you been? You left all the work to me! There’s a limit to your belief in me! Aren’t you going to learn your job?”

“You bastard, bastaaaaard! Damn bastard! Where’s the support? Where are you going to set up my blacksmith’s shop? Why didn’t you tell me that the city was destroyed!”

It took more than thirty minutes for their complaints to subside as they fired them like rapid-fire cannons and pulled both of Leeha’s arms as if they were trying to tear it apart.

“……Now that I think about it, I guess it’s a good thing we didn’t take Castle Dale.”

Looking at the scene, Kijung shook his head.

From the efficient operation of the city to the expansion of the outer walls of the city and the construction of water-based equipment to prepare for the reserves’ defense.

The three pieces that Leeha thought of were finally gathered.

Gaza City’s raid and post-recovery work were quite tumultuous. Enough to keep an eye on who, when, and how they entered.

Of course, Ram Hwayeon was acting as the deputy, and all access by suspicious personnel was blocked, but before that, one fact had to be examined.

Gaza City was a big city that was recognized by Ram Hwayeon.

And there were ‘luxury pubs’ in big cities.

***

“Euuung, as expected, he even called both Byulcho and Hwahong.”

“Yes. It was as Oka-san predicted.”

“Tsk, that’s why I told him to make demon nobles run rampant in Fibiel as soon as possible. Because we can’t let those two come to Gaza City. Stupid Faust…… he can’t even eat the food that was prepared for him.”

Chiyou was talking to Sasuke with her arms crossed at a secret bar outside the high-end residential area of Gaza City, far from the usual ‘market’.

Of course, the owner was Chiyou.

“What are you going to do?”


“We have to watch the trend first. We need to know how each country will move after the conclusion of the peace treaty…… More than anything, I’m curious about what will happen here in Gaza City. Who is the NPC you bribed into the reserve?”

“That…… he died.”

“Phew, the Demon King’s agents did not help much. See if you can find a new one to grease with. As soon as possible.”

“Understood.”

Chiyou’s information gap can be said to be fortune among the misfortunes of Leeha.

There was no way that Leeha knew what Ram Hwayeon did not know. However, his sniper’s instinct stirred.

“- please do as I ask from each of you. I am going to the Pope.”

In the inner conference room, Leeha quietly opened his mouth. The atmosphere, which had calmed down, began to heat up again.

“T-the Pope? Hyung?”

“The Pope, what do you mean by that? Don’t you have to manage the city? How long do I have-”

“This guy! Are you saying you’re just going to play around while leaving me with the repair of the walls!”

Kijung, Ram Hwayeon, and Bottleneck tried to protest, but Leeha made them quiet by putting his index finger into his lips.

“Shh. That’s not it.”

They knew~! It wasn’t a normal atmosphere.

And when Leeha’s eyes and voice changed like this, everyone knew from experience that the flow of Middle Earth would change.

“The signing of the peace treaty has concluded, and according to the information from Byulcho, the demon nobles are no longer rampaging in Fibiel. Minis cities have not been attacked since the attack on Gaza. What does that mean?”

It was the reason why Kijung only stored important locations in the crystal ball.

Because the quest to defend against demon nobles in Fibiel no longer appeared.

In addition, Faust and the chimeras, who had been raiding villages on the edge of Minis, had not moved in several days.

When he heard the news from Kijung and Ram Hwayeon, Leeha was certain.


“Bluebeard also found out that the peace treaty had been signed.”

“How would Bluebeard know?”

“It’s because there are users like Faust. Most importantly, wouldn’t it be correct to assume that there is someone dealing with information?”

Even if Faust or other users who joined the Demon King’s army didn’t know, there was no way that the ‘hidden hand’ wouldn’t know.

‘Then, how will Bluebeard move in the future?’

It was the point that Leeha’s instinct, the instinct of a sniper, found.

“They will come together at one point. All the demon nobles in Fibiel, chimeras that rampaged in Minis, and the Demon King’s agents.”

Gulp, either Ram Hwayeon or Kijung. Someone gulped.

It was also because they were able to anticipate Leeha’s words in advance.

“Before that, I will persuade the Pope to form a team to defeat Bluebeard. Before they all gather-”

Leeha took out the Black Bass. Normally, they would have moved after the fact was confirmed. However, not now. Now that Gaza City has been attacked, Leeha can no longer passively wait.

An eye for an eye, a tooth for a tooth.

“-We will hit them first. Very secretively.”

And it was only natural to pay blood with blood.

*** “Wait! That’s easy for you to say, but it’s hard to manage the city without you! It’s not like I can just do anything by being a proxy.”

“T-that rude woman is right. You bastard, repairing walls? Even if I try to take care of that, there’s no money! How will we fix it when she doesn’t even give us money to bring in materials and manpower?”

“What? What kind of city is this? Are you talking about money? How hard it must have been to recover this much on a meager income!”

Ram Hwayeon and Bottleneck growled at each other. This is what the two of them were fighting about before Leeha came. Bottleneck tried to claim his rights after he had done his duty, but it was not a situation where he could do so. A castle wall cannot be restored with a single hammer.

Ram Hwayeon also had something to say. Because Gaza City currently doesn’t have any income. They have used the remaining money from the safe to restore the most urgent roads, water and sewage, and the residences of the NPC residents. There was no room for a large budget to repair the walls.

“Since it’s hyung’s request, I can have some of our guild members defend the city…… we can help defend the city, but we cannot do it indefinitely. If it were only me, I would stay forever……


Kijung was also in the same position. Byulcho’s executives who were close to Leeha will always help him, however, it didn’t mean that other members can always reside in Gaza City.

“You’re going to use Byulcho? Hmm, then we can save the operating budget of the Knights Templar for a while. But, that’s what the guild master of Byulcho said. Do you think it will cost less to recruit and train the Gaza Knights again?”

In the end, the Gaza Knights, who had suffered a blow close to destruction, had to be used to defend the city again, but the reality was that they had no money for that.

“Haaa……. How can it not work?”

“Do you think I’m a bank? I can’t print money either!”

“Keuuung……”

Listening to Ram Hwayeon’s explanation, Leeha wrapped his head. The operation needs to be fast and secretive.

‘In order to proceed while making the ‘informant’ and ‘hidden hand’ of this fact, we must move as quickly and carefully as possible……. Does it make sense that I am tied down by money?’

After all, in order to do all of these things simultaneously, Leeha must invest money. And fortunately, he had some money.

‘The Legendary items from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair”. If he sold it, he would have money as soon as possible. In other words, he could think of it as a long-term investment…

He couldn’t help but think about reality. There were also real estate items that his mother had already looked at. How should he do that? If these items were put into Gaza City, the plans in reality would be postponed.

It was not an easy choice for Leeha to make.

“Huuu…… Whether in reality or in-game, money is always an issue.”

“You’re stating the obvious. Do you think running a city would be easy? In order to make a bigger income- huh?!”

Waaaaaa—–

“Uhm what is this?”

“Magic?! Is it magic?!”

A bluish-green light emanated from the Gaza City reserve conference room.

It was a strange feeling that Leeha felt for the first time.

What floated where the light had disappeared was the bronze dragon hatchling, blaugrun.

『Kyu!』

Blaugrunn, who had disappeared somewhere, appeared next to Leeha using the ‘appearance’ magic.

“Dragon?!”

“Leeha hyung? What is that in your shoulder?!”

“Oh! It’s the dragon that was hatched last time. Is it using magic already?”

Ram Hwayeon, Kijung, and Bottleneck looked at Blaugrunn with their respective thoughts.

Leeha felt sorry again. He was planning to restore Gaza City and subjugate the Demon King’s minions, but he didn’t even notice that the dragon on his shoulder was gone ….

“Ah, blaugrun-ssi. Where did you-”

『Kyuuuu-!』

Feeling sorry, Leeha raised his hand to stroke it once, but Blaugrunn avoided Leeha’s hand.

“You’re avoiding my hand like that.”

『Kyuuu, kyu!』

Seeing Leeha’s disappointment and apologetic face, blaugrun shook its head. As if saying it didn’t mean it.

『Kyuuuuu-!』

Blaugrunn tightened his body and trembled as if he was taking a poop.

“Huh……? What is this-”

Shaaaa……

When the light shone again from the small creature’s body flapping in the air, the space in the center of the meeting room began to split.

“Subspace magic! The hatchling, the hatchling can use subspace magic!? It is indeed a dragon hatched from an easter egg!”

Bottleneck shouted in surprise, but the users didn’t know exactly what it meant. What was subspace magic? It was seconds later that they learned about the true nature of the magic.

“Oh, ohh-!”

“What is coming out!”

Something began to rumble, curl, and pour down the cracks in the space that was split like a zipper opening in the air

They were small!

Clang, clang, clang.

The users were able to know what object fell to the floor based on the sound. Sword, shield, armor, boots……. They were items that filled the central space of the meeting room.

“Oh……. This…

“What is this?! Heroic, heroic, heroic, heroic-”

“Equipment! The dragon brought you a present! Uwaah! You damn bastard, the dragon is paying its debt!”

As Bottleneck shouted with joy, blaugrun made a joyful cry.

『Kyuu! Kyukyu!』

Then, the bronze dragon hatchling flapped its wings and sat on Leeha’s shoulder.

A bright voice and items fell out of thin air. Leeha also noticed.

“Surely……. Did you really bring these for me to use?”

『Kyu!』

“The three rewards I can choose-” 『Kyuuu?』

“Does it mean I could still choose? Then…… are these gifts? Literally?”

『Kyu! Kyu!』

Blaugrunn nodded vigorously.

As Ram Hwayeon had already looked through, she confirmed that all of them were heroic-grade items. If he sold all of them, there would be no problems with Gaza City’s restoration project right away.

Leeha managed to calm his throbbing heart and hugged Blaugrunn.

“Thanks.”

『Kyuuu.』

『It was nothing.』

Leeha seemed to have somehow heard Blaugrunn’s adult voice.

“How about this?”

“Okay. Starting from restoring the walls, it will be too much to use as an emergency budget.”

“Okay! Kijung-ah! Call the Byulcho members as well. I will leave recruiting and training the Gaza Knights to you.”

Leeha put on his Black Bass as if he would leave immediately.

(To be continued…)

TL’s notes:

There might be confusion between the Demon King’s army and Demon King’s agents, the difference is the Demon King’s army pertains to the Demon King’s forces as a whole, while Demon King’s agents are the users who joined the Demon King’s army.
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 “Huh? Ohh? I have never done anything like that before-”

“I will tell you to call the volunteers and let them know, so you just have to do it. Did you level up a bit?”

Kijung, who suddenly received the instructions, was confused, but Ram Hwayeon was Ram Hwayeon. In this aspect, it was truly an army of thousands. Additionally, there was also Bottleneck that would repair walls and build water-based defenses!

“Bottleneck-ajussi, I will leave the quick development of the city’s defenses to you. Please come up with an idea to not only defend against the invasion of enemies but also automatically trigger an alarm when approaching a certain distance within the city radius.”

“Do you think that is easy?!”

“It’s not easy, so only Bottleneck-ajussi can do it. You are Gaza City’s Chief Engineer.”

“Cough……. I mean, still-”

“Cheer up. You just saw it, right? If you put your mind to it, oh?! I’ll get you a lot of good minerals from the dragon lair.”

‘Although I wonder if Blaugrunn will allow it.’

The last remark Leeha omitted was the most important, but Bottleneck, who had already seen Blaugrunn’s performance, had no choice but to nod again and go for Leeha’s tricks.

 “Good. I will take responsibility for that.”

“Okay! Then I will go to the Holy City! Blaugrunn-ssi, here!”

Leeha gave each of the people he could trust 100% instructions and immediately activated his crystal ball. The first place he went to before going to Ezwen was, of course, the capital, to the Musket Academy.

“What did you just say?”

“Please have them leave, Your Holiness.”

Browless, who was kneeling in front of the pope, quietly opened his mouth. Of course, Leeha was beside Browless.

Leeha was appointed as the lord of Gaza City, the invasion of the castle by the Demon King’s agents, which included a large number of humans, and even the fact that someone with a continental information network might be on the side of the Demon King’s army, even though they were unseen. As soon as Leeha made a report to Browless, Browless brought him to the Holy City Ezwen.

“You know who’s around me, don’t you?”

“Of course. They are Cardinals and other faithful servants who spread the love of God, I ask if you know that as well.”

The Pope had a somewhat perplexed expression on his face. However, he couldn’t refuse to listen to Browless’ request.


‘It wouldn’t have been possible if I was the one who told him.’

As a user, Leeha wasn’t very familiar with the Holy City, and he wasn’t in a position to say anything to the NPC Pope yet. In fact, Leeha did not turn off the ‘dignity’ buff, but since entering the Vatican, no one has bowed to him.

“It’s okay, Your Holiness. If it’s the hero Browless, it certainly means something. We will go out.”

“Uh.”

Phew.

The Pope nodded, and the cardinal and other high-ranking clergymen in the audience room all vacated the room.

After bowing politely to the departing personnel, Browless reported to the Pope what happened to Leeha.

“Shouldn’t we conduct a full-scale search? Are you talking about that now, Browless?”

“Yes. At this point in time when the peace treaty has been signed, I feel sorry, but it couldn’t be helped.”

“Well, who is dealing with information so carefully?”

The Pope looked at Leeha while questioning Browless.

Of course, Browless, who had heard all the stories, did not stop Leeha. Leeha opened his mouth when he saw the NPC who wanted an answer from the person who experienced it.

“I don’t know.”

“You don’t know?”

“That’s right. Besides, it is unknown whether the person handling the information actually belongs to the Demon King’s Army.”

“Ho! Ho!! Just…… are you suggesting this only on speculations and assumptions? It’s not easy to search individually, and what if more damage happens-”

“So that is what I would like to propose, Pope-nim. No, Your Holiness, the Pope.”

Leeha cut off the Pope.

It might have been a bit rude, but the Pope didn’t change his expression.

“What is it? How are you going to deal with the Demon King’s army with Bluebeard and even humans?.”


“……It is to form a small elite subjugation team. A large number of people cannot move simultaneously. It is also dangerous to spread official letters to each country in the name of the Pope. As I said, we still don’t know where the enemy that could steal our information is. In the end, the best answer is to limit it to a small number of people that can be trusted.”

“This is a ridiculous proposition. Even if we have the war heroes of the 2nd human-demon war, we cannot stop the Demon King’s army with a few elite soldiers. Now, only Bluebeard is active, but who knows how things will change. What if Bluebeard had already revived or awakened Ghibrid and Pyrot Cocri- while the ‘few elites’ are going after him? There’s no way they can handle the Demon King’s army because they are not as good as the war heroes of the Second Human-Demon War.”

“No. It’s possible.”

“What?”

“Except for Bluebeard, the Fragments of the Demon King haven’t awakened yet. If that were the case, the invasion in Gaza City couldn’t have ended just there. And since they haven’t woken up yet, we have to move first, faster, and stealthier. Before the rest of the Fragments Demon King wakes up. And before the Demon King’s army becomes active in Fibiel and Minis again.”

It was a rational thought.

The current situation was natural, and considering the Fragments of the Demon King and the Demon King’s army, Leeha’s judgment was almost consistent with the fact.

The Pope, who was troubled with a serious expression after hearing Leeha’s words, was proof of that.

Browless also didn’t stop his student’s words, and he didn’t add more either. It was because he believed in Leeha completely.

The Pope, who had been struggling for a long time, finally spoke.

“……Can you do it?”

“Cough, huuuuu…….”

Leeha took a deep and slow breath.

He told the Pope confidently, but he didn’t know if it would be successful.

But it couldn’t be helped. Hitting the trigger was the only way to know.

“I ask you to give me the authority to form a punitive squad. I will come back as soon as possible with a group of people whom the Pope will approve of.”

As soon as they entered Gaza City, Leeha was ready to pull the trigger.

“How many nasty chemicals did they use to make a stone look like this? Is this a castle wall, or pudding?”

As one of the dwarves tried to swing the hammer, a sound was heard from behind him.

“Sprinkle the hardener first, then hammer it as you shape it, you bastard! If you just hit it, everything will be dug up!”


“Nimiral! Even if you don’t say that, I am better than you, so shut up! I am just testing it, don’t make a fuss…. You’re just a dwarf that got kicked out of Hell’s Anvil.”

“What? I am the Chief Engineer of this human city, bigger than Hell’s Anvil, arrogant dwarf, should I pull out all your whiskers to make sure you know your rank?!”

Paak-! Paak-! Paak-!

Their hands did not stop even as they shouted at each other.

The renovation of Gaza City’s walls was progressing enough to change its appearance on an hourly basis.

This was because, in addition to the masons from Gaza City, Bottleneck, who had just been appointed as the new Chief Engineer, brought several dwarves from Hell’s Anvil.

The items brought by Blaugrunn were disposed of and used as an emergency budget.

“Deputy, how do we deal with this?”

“Think before you move, not after you move! Now that the restoration of the road to the market is almost over, we can dismantle this open-air market and use it as a temporary detention center! Leave the maintenance of the market building to the hairy dwarf over there!”

“Yes ma’am! Okay. As you command.”

The steward NPC ran out again with a crying look on his face.

Her ability to handle tasks was superior to that of the steward NPC, who had a good understanding of Gaza City, so it was nothing special.

“Hairy? Who’s hairy?! Be polite to the “Chief Engineer”, rude woman!”

“Heung, if that’s the case, shouldn’t you be polite, hairy dwarf? I am the ‘representative’ of Ha Leeha, the lord of the castle!”

Even in the midst of that, Bottleneck and Ram Hwayeon growled at each other.

Their characters, which did not want to lose, were being revealed. Seeing this, Kijung, couldn’t help but sigh.

“How can they still work in this atmosphere? It’s really amazing. Isn’t that right, Tale hyung?”

“Maybe because Leeha-kun is the lord of the castle…. I think the overall atmosphere is like Leeha-kun.”

“Kikis, you mean that the features were quite distinct, but on the outside, doesn’t it look sloppy and messy?”

“Hmm. It was a rather harsh expression, but……. It cannot be denied.”

Biyemi said in a playful, piercing voice, but Tale did not deny it. As expected, the image of Leeha in their head is close to that form.

Even Kijung, who was Leeha’s cousin, did not object to the expression ‘it seems sloppy and messy’….

“Ah, let’s continue. Next! What number is it?”

In front of Byulcho, where they were having a short conversation, there was a line of sturdy young NPCs who had seen Ram Hwayeon’s proclamation.

“Application number 63! Krat! Your main weapon is a sword and shield?!”

“Application number 64, cheney! Your main weapon is a two-handed sword?!”

“Good. Please prepare.”

One of Byulcho’s main missions was rebuilding the Gaza Knights.

Among the NPCs who were in critical condition, 12 were unable to get tested due to lateness.

Nearly half of the 150 members, 72 people, were killed in the raid, so Kijung and Byulcho needed to select and train the personnel again.

“Kikis, I don’t know if this is how our Guild master-nim will become the knight commander here. I heard the captain of the knights died too?”

“Not just the captain. It is said that all the platoon commanders of each platoon, including the vice-captain, have died…. At least, it must have meant that there were many NPCs in the Gaza Knights who were equipped not only with martial arts but also with courtesy.”

Tale nodded to Biyemi’s words.

Those with the strongest skills would have been at the forefront during the raid by the chimera and the Demon King’s army, giving the residents time to evacuate.

As a result, it became the worst form, but Tale had warm respect for the NPCs who died after fulfilling their heavy responsibility and duty and their hard work rather than the result.

“You can’t let such a non-committal attitude join such a wonderful knight order! C-come when you’re ready!”

Tale pulled out his two-handed sword and aimed it at recruit numbers 63 and 64. It was like an entrance exam that also served as a real test.

In the corner of the bustling Gaza City, a person was watching closely.

“Have we not seen Ha Leeha for several days already?”

“That’s right. Hwahong and Byulcho, as well as the dwarves, are making a lot of noise. But I wasn’t able to see Ha Leeha”

“Isn’t he in the inner castle?.”

His current location was in a tavern in a different city, but to her, who could easily move between taverns, going inside the city was no problem.

“So far…… the NPC we got failed verification. However, seeing as Ram Hwayeon directing and moving, it is assumed that Leeha is not inside Gaza City.”

“Hmmm, no, no. We can’t be so sure. Even if Ha Leeha was present, Ram Hwayeon would be taking care of business. Well, isn’t she at least one of the few with the ability acknowledged in Middle Earth? Even I wouldn’t have been able to maintain that supply line during the national war.”

To Chiyou, Ram Hwayeon was a much more restrained presence than users obsessed with rankings and stats.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 360

				
 “But didn’t Oka-san win at that time?”

“It was thanks to Faust and Crowley who have matched my rhythm well. No, that’s not important. It doesn’t matter what it means that Ha Leeha hasn’t been seen for days. You didn’t talk about it anywhere else, did you?”

“Yes. I put them all near the places he frequents, but… there were no special movements. Considering that the Musket Academy NPC in Fibiel still remains the same, it seems they are not moving together.”

“He is probably the main NPC related to Bluebeard…. Seeing that they are not moving, is there no search operation? I thought the Pope would give an order as soon as the peace treaty was signed.”

She was indeed the representative of the User Intelligence Guild.

The idea of grasping the flow of the entire quest related to the subjugation of the Demon King’s army through Browless’ movement was not something anyone could come up with.

‘Even if he moves, he should have moved earlier. The reason why I raided Leeha’s Gaza City was because I expected that the moment after the conclusion of the peace treaty was the only opportunity. Why is the Pope so quiet? And where is Ha Leeha?’

A strange feeling of uneasiness ran through Chiyou’s entire body.

“I must go and see Faust. On which hideout is he?”

“He’s on the 27th hideout, near the Land of the Dead.”

“Alright, Sasuke, focus on finding Ha Leeha for the time being. Keep an eye out for a major search operation in Minis or Fibiel. In particular, you must check whether official letters are distributed in the name of the Pope.”

“I understand. Oka-san.”

The strategy to read each other’s plans and catch up with them continued.

However, Leeha was a step faster this time. It was because Leeha had already experienced fighting the ‘hidden hand’ that he was making extra effort.

It was only natural that Browless wouldn’t move, and that Chiyou and Sasuke couldn’t find Leeha’s movements.

Because all of that was included in Leeha’s plan.

Seuuk…….

A man with his face covered in a mask poked his head out in front of the throne room of the Vatican.

He quickly checked left and right and the surroundings and ran to the door of the audience room. Actually, he didn’t have to do that, but his movements were quite serious.

“Quick, quick, inside!”


“Damn it, I don’t know what you did. If it hadn’t been for the Headmaster’s order, your face would-”

“Shh! Be quiet and get in quickly!”

“The Vatican said it was safe, but why do we have to go this far? You said you finished talking about it beforehand-”

“When did I say it was safe?! And there’s nothing to lose by being careful, right?!”

And of course, the masked person was Leeha.

Luger and Kidd grumbled, as well as several people trudging behind them.

“Why are you so relaxed? Come in quickly!”

“Did you forget that you should not make a fuss in places that spread faith?”

“Aish, it’s not the time to talk nonsense. Bailephus-nim too, quickly-”

“Don’t worry, mana detection is already done. There’s no one around. Do you think there is someone who can eavesdrop on our conversation without being detected by me?”

Leeha urged impatiently, but Alexander and Bailephus were walking at a carefree pace.

There was another figure behind them who was pulling a sword, but Leeha quickly pointed at him and shook his head.

“When I said hurry up, I meant going inside, not going after Alexander, Lee Jiwon-ssi. Put your sword away, quickly.”

“Hehe, I was just kidding, hyung-nim. If I help you this time, help me get in touch with the dragons, okay? Oh, I’m feeling~ ”

“Haa, … okay, you keep asking me, how many times have you said that already? Come in quickly.”

Luger, Kidd, Alexander, and Bailephus entered.

Following them was the magic swordsman, 2nd in the ranking, Lee Jiwon. There was another person following the procession and looking anxiously at it.

“Is it really possible with this number of people? I don’t think the Pope will allow it! Of course, I admit that the people gathered here are strong, but-”

“Get inside, fernand-ssi. Don’t worry.”

Middle Earth’s best tracker and adventurer looked uneasy. Leeha reassured him and pushed his back into the Pope’s audience chamber.


Leeha had managed to convince the Pope because he knew that the operation would not be possible with just combat personnel.

“Now, we’re all in- huh? Why are you not going in?”

“With oppa.”

Leeha thought they were all in, but there was still one person left.

At some point, a little girl held Leeha’s sleeves. Her blue hair stood out anywhere in the Vatican.

 “Huh? Okay, let’s go. And hat! Please wear a hat while you’re walking with us.”

“It’s uncomfortable.”

As Leeha put the hat on her other hand, Ram Hwajung pouted.

However, as if the feeling that the hand touching her hair wasn’t bad, she accepted it right away.

Perhaps if someone else had tried to forcibly put a hat on Ram Hwajung, she would have frozen their whole body except for their nostrils.

“Okay. Let’s go in together.”

Ram Hwajung was hard to handle for Leeha, but there was no time for that now.

After entering the Pope’s audience chamber following Ram Hwajung, Leeha closed the door.

Kuuung!

It took about 3 minutes for the door to open, get them in, and close again.

“Cough……. Didn’t you say you would gather them secretly?”

“I-I’m sorry, Your Holiness.”

It was only natural that the Pope would clear his throat at the noise and delay of just passing through the gate.

Leeha looked at his team, who did not have the proper posture even in front of the Pope.

Alexander, held a spear as if it was only natural, and Bailephus, the golden knight, stood beside him with his arms folded.


Lee Jiwon, who was following Alexander, was wondering if he could somehow make a hit.

Ram Hwajung, like a gum stuck to a shoe, stuck to Leeha.

There was also Luger, who was licking his lips, with a look that said, ‘I don’t care who it is, I want to fight’, and Kidd, who was grumbling.

“……Is this everyone who is going to fight Bluebeard?”

“Ah…… Yes. That’s right.”

『Kyu!』

Leeha replied to the Pope with a confident smile. Blaugrunn also let out a pleasant cry at that refreshing smile.

Six users and two dragons- an Ancient class and a Hatchling class, lined up in front of the Pope in their respective positions.

“Hmmm……”

It was only natural that the Pope would have a strange expression as he looked at them.

“Having the Ancient Dragon with us is like having a thousand soldiers ten thousand horses…. If you don’t mind, what does the dragon think?”

The Pope, who had been scratching his chin, tilted his head and asked.

Leeha was not surprised.

It was only natural that the NPC Pope, who was the head of the religion, the representative of the temples spread all over the continent, and the spokesperson of God would recognize the dragon.

“It’s possible.”

The answer of Bailephus, who was wearing golden armor, was short and straightforward.

It was because the intellectual level of the two NPCs was so high that they didn’t even need to ask what each other meant.

“I also know that there’s also the 8th Bahamut. If he can help-”

“It’s not like that. If the Lord recklessly moves, this continent will be damaged.”

When Bailephus shook his head resolutely, the surroundings stirred. Only Alexander and Leeha understood Bailephus’ meaning.

‘The moment the leaders of the metal dragon move, the chromatic dragon won’t stand still. Tsk, that won’t be good for me as well.’

Rather, it was Bahamut who could not move recklessly because he was the ‘King’.

Although Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was expelled, the relationship between chromatic and metal dragons worsened with his death, and of course, Bahamut, who wanted to protect order and goodness and enforce justice had to take center stage at some point.

Leeha was the reason why he couldn’t convince Bahamut until the end.

‘Hyungnim, who is Bahamut? Lord? Dragon Lord? How can I get hold of that?’

‘Ssh! Say that in front of Alexander and Bailephus, and you’re going to die in one hit!’

‘Why do you know what they’re talking about by yourself again, you damn bastard. Dragon Lord? If I catch him, will I become the strongest?’

‘Luger, be quiet, don’t pour oil on a burning house.’

Leeha stopped the two in a cold sweat.

Baillipus didn’t kill him on this spot if he hadn’t heard of it.

‘Hmmm……. If so…… you really think it’s possible with just this number of people?”

Everyone could see what Leeha thought of the team he had gathered. The Pope was skeptical. In fact, the people present were equally dubious.

Among them, there were those who had been directly hit by Bluebeard, and those who had been busy with the surrounding demon nobles.

Whatever the method, the Demon King’s army was never an easy opponent.

It is not an exaggeration to say he could be called the strongest monster in Middle Earth’s phase 2, and you’re saying it’s possible with ‘party hunting’ rather than a ‘raid’?

It was a word from the gold dragon that put an end to the people’s worries.

“Of course. Because we have Ha Leeha.”

“Bailephus-nim…”

Bailephus turned and looked at the people lined up, and then Leeha.

“Even I was impressed by this guy’s ploy to kill Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. I believe in the strength of Ha Leeha, who has become a member of the Lord’s family, and furthermore a member of the metal clan.”

And the ancient dragon’s words were no different from a guarantee.

“I understand. If so, I would like to ask all of you gathered here.”

Syaaaa-!

A notification window appeared in front of the users’ eyes.

『Subjugation of the Demon King’s army』

Explanation: ‘I, Pope Gaius IV, appoint you as Ahlo’s representatives from the land to subjugate the Demon King’s army. However, at the request of Ha Leeha, the one who planned this operation, no official search or large-scale assistance from Ezwen and other countries is necessary, so you must defeat the Demon King’s army on this continent with your own strength and a bit of help. Please keep this in mind. The fact that what is at stake in this subjugation operation is more than just your life……. May the protection of Ahlo be with you.’

Pope Gaius IV made a decision. He chose to believe in the plan of the one that the hero of the second Human-Demon believes in and is guaranteed by the gold dragon.

There is only one thing left. Kill all the demons on this continent.

Content: Kill all of the demons in the Demon King’s army that are on the continent

Reward: ???

First Prize: Jannate’s Key

Condition for Failure: The resurrection of other Fragments of the Demon King other than Bluebeard, death of all the subjugation team members.

Penalty for failure: Achievement – Beginning of the Fall, continental Reputation -10,000

Intimacy with the church of Ezwen and the church of Ahlo -50%

-Would you like to accept??

“Please get rid of all the demon king’s army in the continent.”

The Pope walked over and took something out of his sleeves.

The only difference between the other people’s quest windows and Leeha was the winged key that the Pope took out.

(To be continued…)
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 “This.”

“This relic will replace my voice. Will you accept it, subjugation leader?”

Luger’s eyebrows twitched for a moment at the word subjugation leader, but he was able to admit that it was acceptable.

He devised the operation in the first place and gathered them.

Leeha was the reason why the people who would have growled or started fighting as soon as they saw each other were civil in the Vatican, and it was only natural that the one who united them would be the subjugation leader.

“Subjugation leader against the Demon King’s army, Ha Leeha. I will obey the orders of Pope Gaius IV.”

Leeha got down on one knee and accepted the Pope’s key with a determined attitude. At the same time, all users pressed the accept button.

“Then, what are we going to do now?”

“First, we need to find their gathering place. I don’t know if the reason why the raids in Fibiel and Minis stopped was whether to gather strength or to escape……. Anyway, it should be clear that they are gathering somewhere.”

Kidd asked as soon as they left the Pope’s audience chamber.

Leeha’s answer was based on information that went beyond simple speculation. Listening to him Kidd nodded.

“No matter how strong Faust is, wouldn’t he only be summoning undead enforcers, hyungnim? If that’s the case, I would be able to take on hundreds of them in 10 minutes, I’m just going to rush-”

“No. If Lee Jiwon-ssi does what he wants, there’s a high possibility that we will not be able to achieve the purpose of the quest.”

It wasn’t that Leeha was underestimating Lee Jiwon. His intentions were clearly understood by Alexander, who was immersed in Middle Earth.

“That is correct. The sacred mission that the Pope had given us was to eliminate the ‘Demon King’s army’. Our mission will fail if we move recklessly and they hide even further where we cannot find them.”

“Are you saying that we have to carefully find their hideout and attack and catch them in one fell swoop without giving them time to run or hide…?”

 “That’s right, Luger. Even you, a war maniac, your attitude of protecting order is-”

“I like it. In that sense, we can wipe them out in one shot.”

Luger smiled as he stroked the 『Cobalt Blue Python』. Alexander, who was cut off after saying something, sighed and shook his head.

“Anyway, there’s nothing to do until we find their gathering place. First of all, please go back, we don’t want to be seen together. If rankers like you go unnoticed for a long time, the enemy will surely take note.”


“The ‘hidden hand’…… are they really that good?”

“Yes. Their information network is wide and dense enough to easily surpass Kidd’s or my imagination. It’s possible that they won’t be able to catch Alexander and his dragon, but they should have already caught the others in their information network.”

Kidd shook his head and nodded.

“Everyone, please stay at your place and move as usual. Be in a place where whispers can reach you, and our login-logout times should match as much as possible. Even if you find them, there won’t be many chances unless you rule out the possibility of moving again. But you must assemble as soon as you’re being called.”

Leeha also brought out Black Bass.

It would be important from now on.

“Please go back, everyone. Except for Bailephus-nim and Fernand-ssi. Ah! And keep in mind, no matter how much you trust someone, even if it’s an NPC, you should never speak about this to them.”

“You’re the best. Do you know how much I have suffered in the past few days because you didn’t even tell me that Bottleneck was being moved? Thinking of that time, even now, I can break your head-”

“Oho. Luger, if you keep messing with me, should I tell Bottleneck to not sell you any bullets?”

“……You bastard, you really are a damn bastard.”

Luger grumbled and raised the crystal ball.

As Leeha asked them to leave, everyone would be waiting in their respective places for a while.

The members of the Demon King’s Army subjugation team left, and the remaining ones were Bailephus, fernand, and Ram Hwajung, who were asked by Leeha.

“Ram Hwajung-ssi-”

“Me too oppa.”

“Hmm okay. Good. It wouldn’t be strange since Ram Hwayeon is in Gaza City anyway. However, if your older sister asks something from you, don’t reject it and go to her. You must never show anything out of the ordinary.”

“Hehe.”

Ram Hwajung nodded and grabbed Leeha’s sleeves. Blaugrunn fluttered above her head.

“Is it okay for Alexander and me to stick together?”

“Of course. Alexander-ssi should not appear in Gaza City. No, even Bailephus-nim should not be seen.”


“What do you mean?”

A secret and quick way to find the Demon King’s army. What Leeha thought of was a combination of magic and skill.

“Bailephus-nim, do you have an invisibility magic?”

****

“The list of relief items! Is it not written yet?! I told you to finish it by 2 o’clock! Steward! Where did the steward go-”

“Unni.”

“-kaaaak?! Hwa-Hwajung? How are you-”

“Wow…. Ram Hwayeon really……. Isn’t this crazy? This is Gaza City, right? Is it already being restored?”

Ram Hwayeonh was chewing on the NPCs in Gaza’s plaza today as well. Standing in front of her were Leeha and Ram Hwajung.

“Of course! It’s been over a week since you’ve been away! Where were you anyway? If you had come a day late, I would have stopped being a proxy and left! I had plenty of time, so I temporarily left Castle Dale alone-”

“I’m so sorry. Thank you. Really.”

……Tsk.”

Tiredness from the heavy work overlapped with happiness, and she wanted to rant at Leeha, but when she saw his expression of gratitude and smile, her heart calmed down.

“How long has the restoration situation been?”

“I’ll tell you everything from the restoration situation to what you need to do in the future, Ha Leeha, so listen carefully, okay? For the next two days, stay still and receive tutoring.”

“D-do I have to listen for two days?”

As Leeha made a puzzled expression, Ram Hwayeon raised his eyebrows again.

“Do you think running a city is a joke?! Sheesh, I don’t know where or what you did, but it worked rather well. Hwajung, you should also practice approving and reviewing Gaza City documents during this time.

“……Nope……”

“What did you just say, Hwajung?”


“I will work hard, unni.”

“Both of you get a chair and sit down. Because of the work that needs to be done, and I can’t do it in the castle, so I’m doing it here.”

In that way, Leeha, the true lord of Gaza City, and Ram Hwajung began to study unwillingly in the plaza of Gaza City, which Ram Hwayeon used as an outdoor office.

And it was only natural that there were eyes watching the scene.

“Report to Oka-san. Ha Leeha came back with Ram Hwajung.”

“Understood.”

“What about the other side?”

“There’s nothing special. I lost Alexander and Lee Jiwon for a few days, but we were able to follow them again.”

“Hmm. The two can get catch you if you get too close. Keep a reasonable distance and move while securing safety even if you have to miss for one day and follow them on the next.”

“Understood!”

Sseuk-!

The black-clothed silhouette disappeared from the shadows, and the one that was left climbed up a tree in a single leap and peeked at Leeha.

Leeha vaguely felt the hidden gaze.

*** “You can think of what is summarized in this document as the needs of the current residents. If the water supply is dirty or the cleanliness is poor, order the steward to hire more cleaners-”

Leeha: tsk, listen as you speak. Ram Hwayeon, what time have you been here today??

“-…… or you can delegate artificial intelligence management to fit your budget. If it was Gaza City in the past, it wouldn’t have been a problem if it was done automatically, but-”

Ram Hwayeon: From 7am. Why?

Leeha: Aren’t there people around you who have been observing you since then?

“-The city is not normal right now, and doing so will result in losses. You should always get into the habit of taking care of -”

Ram Hwayeon: Well? In fact, the office was set up like a forward base…. To the resident NPCs, it was strange, so maybe there were some around? I don’t really remember anyone. There were always a lot of NPCs around

Leeha: No, not NPCs, but users. Wasn’t there a particular user who watched your every move?

“-people. Do you know what I mean?”

“Okay. I understand.”

Leeha just nodded and quietly looked around and whispered.

However, Ram Hwayeon whispered to Leeha while explaining how to run the city, and in the meantime, not only looked around but also shook her head as if answering Leeha’s last question.

Her ability to go beyond triple to quadruple-tasking was enough to take Leeha’s eyes off her for a moment.

Ram Hwayeon: Hey~ Ha Leeha-ssi, can’t you see me?

****

Fernand: This is really amazing. Because I’m affected by the Ancient Dragon’s invisibility magic, I’m not even showing up on my map! Seriously, I was wondering if it is okay to trust a dragon saying that no one would be able to detect me even if I was next to them unless it was someone like Bluebeard, but really-

Leeha: Cough, fernand-ssi, I can’t see you, so please go and investigate quickly. He was near the eastern wall, where the repairs haven’t been completed yet, so he should have been easy to find.

Fernand: All right. But with this invisibility magic, I think the speed of searching will be at least 40% faster.

Leeha quickly turned on the settings window and Lowered Fernand’s whisper volume. Once he started opening his mouth, he didn’t know how to close it….

‘Maybe he misses being with people since he’s been pioneering alone. Most importantly, until Fernand-ssi finds clues, I will continue staying here while being revealed.’

Leeha followed his intuition.

Surely there must be ‘eyes’ around them as well. In order to carry out the plan, he should not let them know that he was cooking something.

‘As soon as I was appointed as the lord of Gaza City, they found out and attacked it. In other words, it means that the hidden hand is observing me all the time. I have to keep exposing myself on purpose.’

In order to catch the group that provides information to the Demon King’s army off guard, they must never catch the subjugation team’s tail.

‘What the hell are those bastards aiming for? Even the Holy Grill did not know how the ‘demon nobles’ disappeared out of thin air. Not to mention that the quest didn’t pop up for Byulcho, and if the intelligence guild said so, they must have moved somewhere…

Leeha was not sure about the enemy’s purpose.

Why? What were they trying to do together? Could it be that they combined the three forces before waking the Demon King’s Fragment up?

In the worst case, when they raided the place where the enemies gathered, it was important to prepare for the Fragments of the Demon King, including Bluebeard, Ghibrid, and Pyrot Cocri.

“ugh……. It’s terrible to think about.”

Leeha shook his head as if he was disgusted.

‘But for the time being, the story would not go that far in a reasonable way. Even so, it’s a story-driven game, so there’s no way they have all gathered together, right? If so, there must have been some sign. At least there would be a major update.’

Middle Earth always gave hints. And Leeha knew that he was quite deeply involved in the quest related to the Demon King’s army.

Even hints that would not be exposed to other users were visible to him, and at least until now, there were no special incidents discovered by him.

‘When will they stop…. I know their definitely watching. What is their intention.’

Leeha thought.

****

‘What are they doing, what are you up to? I know wouldn’t just sit still.’

Sasuke pondered.

At least in appearance, shinobigumi, Chiyou, and Sasuke had an advantage.

They were not exposed to Leeha at all, and Leeha was being watched by them from time to time.

If a player who shows all cards and a player who hides all cards played a game.

So, not only Chiyou but also Sasuke became careless. It was the carelessness that came from thinking that there would be no big mistake if they took their eyes off Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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 Fernand: Find the trace, find the trace-! Wow, how many of these are there?

Neither Chiyou nor Sasuke could have predicted that behind all of what was revealed, there was a cleverly hidden hidden card.

Leeha: Where?! How did it go?

Fernand: Hmmm- First, where Bluebeard went…

*** “Can you feel it, gold dragon?”

“Bluebeard was something I couldn’t find from the beginning. His stealth exceeds my ability to detect.”

“Hmmm…. How should I explain this? There’s no sign of Bluebeard at all. It feels like Bluebeard has never been to this city in the first place.”

Fernand scratched his head.

Fernand once found Bluebeard’s mana in the Sentinel Mountains. In other words, if Bluebeard had visited, he would have been able to find traces of it this time as well.

However, contrary to what Leeha heard, no trace of Bluebeard could be found in Gaza City.

“Do you feel anything else?”

“Yes. The rest is what Ha Leeha-ssi talked about. Ranked 8th- No, hmm, I can feel the mana of a human necromancer. This side, the mana on this side belonged to the giant berserker. The traces of giants around are also very clearly visible.”

The ancient gold dragon did not know the concept of ranking, so Fernand explained it by substituting it with appropriate words.

“Where are they?”

“Looking at the different mana directions, it looks like they have scattered. They are definitely users, they’re so smart- hmm, no, oh…… people who are this meticulous are accustomed to this sort of thing. By the way, they couldn’t hear our voices, right?”

“Since the silence magic was cast, there’s no way sound would leak out. Don’t worry.”

“I understand. I will report to Ha Leeha-ssi first.”

Fernand: hmm- firstly, where Bluebeard went……. me and the gold dragon don’t know. It appears that he hadn’t come since there’s no trace of him, let alone the direction.

Leeha: That appears to be the case. I didn’t see him with my own eyes.

After listening to Ram Hwayeon’s class and receiving Ram Hwajung’s gaze, Leeha exchanged whispers with Fernand.


Bluebeard was certainly not present during the attack on Gaza City.

‘When Faust persuaded me to join the Demon King’s army, I said that I wanted to talk directly to Bluebeard, but Faust did not allow it. Considering the character of that monster, it was uncharacteristic of him.’

Didn’t he like to giggle at things like that?

Leeha thought that he would come out first before Faust could reject him because he wasn’t someone who would allow Faust to establish the hierarchy.

‘Does that mean he really wasn’t there? Why? Where did he go and what did he do after sending Faust and the rest of his army to the city?’

It was not a question that could be answered right now.

Leeha focused on Fernand’s whisper again.

Fernand: And then everyone else dispersed. And the traces are already old…. It’s hard to determine where each of them moved, but it’s possible to figure out the general location the mana marks went to.

Leeha: How many are there?

Fernand: There are three. One near the land of the dead, one near the Rano Forest, and one huge mass on the Tino Riverside. What is this huge lump? There’s definitely no trace of Bluebeard-

Leeha: It’s most likely a giant golem. Tino Riverside is not far from here…… they’re cunning guys who ran off to their own hideouts when they ran away.

Leeha had a headache.

Three directions? Where should he focus? How do they chase?

And now, he could tell from Fernand’s reaction alone. The traces were not permanent.

It disappears naturally after a certain period of time.

‘There won’t be any traces of where they’ve already moved. And now we don’t know where Bluebeard is…. Fernand should be sent when there are even the slightest traces of it. Faust is important, but in the end, I have to kill Bluebeard to complete the quest.’

In the end, there were not many directions to choose from the position of the subjugation team.

Besides, there was no need to send Fernand, a non-combatant, as long as the approximate name of the location is given.

Leeha: I understand. First, I will spread the word and see if there are people who can investigate directly. After that, fernand-ssi will move and check.

It’s important to locate other guys, but you should focus on the traces of Bluebeard, especially while he’s on the move.


Fernand: Okay! Heuheu, then I won’t have anything to do for the time being. I asked the gold dragon to cast a spell…

Leeha cut off Fernand’s whispers and finalized his thoughts.

No matter who it was in the subjugation team, with their skills, they could move.

As long as they could get to the location without getting noticed.

Arranging personnel at the right place to conduct a direct investigation would certainly be helpful.

‘If we continuously grasp their movements, we will have a chance.’

Leeha slowly organized his thoughts.

‘For the time being, we have to check where they will group up, and prepare! Wouldn’t it be best to wipe all of the Demon King’s army except for Bluebeard? After that, fernand would focus on finding Bluebeard’s trace!’

It was the best strategy that Leeha could think of.

Finding the timing to separate the power of the overwhelming Bluebeard and the Demon King’s agents while being able to prevent those cunning guys from running away at the same time!

If Bluebeard, who boasts overwhelming strength, joined the Demon King’s agents, chances won’t come easily to the small elite subjugation team again.

This strategic judgement was by no means wrong.

At least, based on the information Leeha knew ‘until now’.

Leeha looked at the location of the members of the subjugation team registered in his friend’s list and whispered to three people.

“Are you listening?”

“Huh? Ah, yes.”

“Liar. What did I just say?”

Ram Hwayeon snorted in anger. Doing something else while she was teaching giving him practical know-how on managing a city?

However, Leeha, a sniper, was not the type to lose focus once he concentrated on something.

“The more important this Hub city is, the more important external management is, especially the nature of the city located in Minis territory. As soon as the road restoration is complete, send a small gift with an official letter of apology for causing concern to the city incorporated into Fibiel with Gaza City and the nearby Minis Castle… right? That way, each city will approve and send logistics through Gaza City again, and normal resident NPCs will also actively visit.”


“……Huh? Y-you were listening?”

“Of course. That was your explanation, maybe I missed a few words.”

“That’s my explanation……?”

“Yes.”

It was the combination of Ram Long Group and Castle Dale’s know-how.

But Ram Hwayeon, who heard it, couldn’t understand it that way.

While Ram Hwayeon blushed for a moment, Ram Hwajung, who was sitting next to Leeha, jumped up.

“I’ll be back”

“Hwajung? Where-”

“Shh. Ram Hwayeon-ssi, pretend you don’t know for a moment. Please talk to me more.”

“-Well- wait- no, huh? Hwa-Hwajung! Hwajung-”

Ram Hwayeon was taken aback, but Leeha quickly took Ram Hwayeon’s attention.

Leeha: Ram Hwajung-ssi, please investigate Tino Riverside. There are no subjugation members nearby…… and calling Kidd or Luger now would be annoying……. Ah! You absolutely must not fight. Just scout. I don’t want Ram Hwajung-ssi to be in danger.

-Ok……understood oppa.

It wasn’t ‘I understand oppa’, but more like a sneaky confession ‘I like oppa’ with the word getting dragged, but Leeha did not notice.

Shyuuk-!

After Ram Hwajung disappeared, Leeha poured out city-related questions to the dumbfounded Ram Hwayeon.

Sasuke: Oka-san, Ram Hwajung just moved.

Chiyou: Ram Hwajung…? Hmm, did she go to Castle Dale? Where’s Ha Leeha?

Sasuke: I heard he is with Ram Hwayeon in Gaza City-

Chiyou: Huhut, it looks like he is getting tutored on how to run a city. Ram Hwajung has a tendency to go alone, so ignore her… Make sure Ha Leeha doesn’t call Kidd or Luger nearby, and that the three of them are not trying to do something together.

Sasuke: Yes. According to the report 15 minutes ago, neither Kidd nor Luger are active.

They are either hiding or trying to figure something out.

In the invisible card game they were playing, Leeha was still winning points.

There was no way that Chiyou, who was focused on Browless’ movements, was unaware of the relationship between Kidd, Luger, and Leeha.

Also, it had already been confirmed in Northern Shazrashian that Bluebeard appeared where the three of them gathered and moved.

Chiyou: Okay. Bye~!

Sasuke: Hat. Take care of yourself, oka-san.

Of course, the Three Musketeers did not go where Bluebeard was, but Bluebeard followed where the Three Musketeers went, but Chiyou did not know such details.

‘Anyway, if that Musketeer NPC and the Three Musketeers, including Ha Leeha, don’t move… The other users haven’t been deeply involved in the Demon King’s quest, so I guess it doesn’t matter.’

As a matter of fact, there were users on the continent who were on quests related to Bluebeard.

Some were accidentally involved, and some users reached it after meticulously completing job-related quests, but none of them were able to keep up with Leeha’s progress yet.

And in the case of the continental main quest, regardless of occupation, they had no choice but to match the speed of the person in front first.

Now, the chances of the laggards finding Bluebeard were extremely low.

‘Faust is just Faust… I have to meet the NPC named Bluebeard directly before I can make a deal.’

Chiyou sighed quietly. The figure standing in front of her did not miss it.

“Whisper? Who were you whispering?”

“You don’t have to worry about it.”

“If you say that, you should know that it makes me more curious…”

As he swung his tail, the undead around him made a clattering sound and approached Chiyou.

“I just heard briefly that Ha Leeha is working hard to restore the city. He’s not showing any signs of movement at all.”

“Ho? I’m glad it’s just in time.”

Even hiding in the shadows, his pure white skin could not be hidden. The Lizardia, Faust, showed his teeth and smiled.

However, his smile soon faded.

“No, no…… do you believe that? I can’t believe everything you say.”

“What do you mean? Do you mean there is something wrong with what I said so far?”

“Of course. Didn’t I lose my precious men because of you? His sudden intervention in Marching Plains… we also lost a lot of chimeras in Gaza City. Didn’t I mention to you before that he even summoned a dragon…?”

The raid, which was carried out with perfect preparation, failed.

Hearing the news of Gaza City, which they only barely dealt half of the planned damage, and was currently being quickly restored with the intervention of Ram Hwayeon, Faust couldn’t help but be doubtful.

In order to cause only that amount of damage, it was revealed that Igor and Czar had joined the Demon King’s army. Chiyou couldn’t help it either.

It was because even she couldn’t have guessed that Leeha had such a skill and that he could make a flamethrower.

‘Tsk, I have a lot of doubts. That’s why I’m going to have to get rid of him and have a direct relationship with Bluebeard.’

Faust and Chiyou had a strange relationship that seemed to be allies but not allies.

Her position was somewhere in between an agent of the Demon King’s army and a human side. Of course, this kind of relationship would not last long if the credibility of her only weapon, ‘information’, was reduced.

Chiyou quickly looked at the Lizardia with an impudent expression on her face.

“I don’t know everything. To compensate for that, I’m giving away a lot of hiding places in various places for free, right? Isn’t that why you’re able to hide like this?”

(To be continued…)
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 “Let’s be straightforward. The noble demons going hiding is something that doesn’t need your help.”

Faust’s sharp tone offended Chiyou, but she was a professional. Rather, Chiyou acted cute to the white Lizardia with her bright smile.

“Huhut. Okay. Still, you know I’m always working hard, right? If you let me meet the Count sometime-”

“I’ll take care of that when the time comes, so don’t worry and keep collecting information and tell me. Ah! Didn’t you say that there are other forces that can help?”

“Your reaction was lukewarm, so we have to wait and see.… Please wait. Anyway, I decided to take a look at it again today. Ah! I have to go now. Then for the time being, take care, and don’t show yourself too much until we have gathered together!”

Shuuuk-! Until the moment Chiyou left, Faust did not lower his guard.

Kaaak…… Kkakak, Kakakak……. After she left, the only things that remained by his side were a handful of chimeras and undead.

“Once you die, you are banished from the Demon King’s army and cannot be restored until the count returns……. It hurts to lose them on the Marching Plains.”

Faust had his own troubles.

It was possible to attract human users. However, once the user who joined the Demon King’s army died, they returned to the human side again.

What was worse was the huge penalty!

It meant that the penalty for joining the Demon King’s army and becoming temporarily stronger was huge.

The dark magician and others, who were in the same guild as Faust, protested strongly, but it was beyond Faust’s authority to incorporate them back into the Demon King’s army.

“When is the count returning…?”

Faust sighed heavily. He thought he could finally overturn the rankings, but…. That was when attacking Gaza City became the wrong choice.

“Every night, I secretly moved the demon nobles, and gathered them…. After all, it means that I have to build a defense line to carry out the last quest…. Damn, no one really likes it.”

The difference between Faust, who received the quest directly from Bluebeard, and the other users, was bound to be different.

Furthermore, didn’t those who approached the Demon King’s army have their own greed and plans?

Crowley, Igor, and even Chiyou were all annoying to deal with for Faust.

‘Now that it’s like this, that’s the only thing I can trust. If possible, I was going to take it out after gaining more strength from the count……’


Faust murmured as he grabbed his cane that had a skeleton on it. Wasteland, was a hideout near the land of the dead, a desolate land where no one walks except for Chiyou’s Shinobigumi.

On the opposite side of the hill from the cave where Faust hid, there were two shining eyes.

『As expected, the best human explorer is different. You were correct.』

“Can you feel their mana?”

It was Alexander who was dispatched to the land of the dead.

Bailephus, who was next to Fernand, immediately used the Appearance skill to move to Alexander’s side and join him.

『I am certain that it is necromancer at that time.』

“Anger can make things go wrong, my friend.”

『Don’t worry. I haven’t lived this long just to lose my reason at an important moment.』

“Uh.”

Phew.

Alexander nodded.

That was what he said, but Bailephus’ fierce eyes looking at the cave made his partner flinch.

Of course, there was a reason Bailephus was angry.

It was because they robbed Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh corpse!

“Isn’t he the one who was with the red dragon from back then?”

『No. It’s different. It looked like a human, but I can’t figure out what it really was.』

If Chiyou walked out of the cave before teleporting, as usual, Alexander would have recognized her immediately, but he could not identify her because she teleported inside the cave.

『Becoming the leader of the Demon King’s army is not enough to disturb a dragon’s rest……. How can a human be so weak to his own desire.』

“I apologize on behalf of humans. It seems that there are too many people who have lost their humanity.”


Alexander bowed his head toward Bailephus in a solemn and respectful manner. If Lee Jiwon had seen it, he would have made fun of them, even retching.

『It’s okay, Alexander. I also know that there are people like you, who are good enough to be friends with me, the executioner, and Ha Leeha, who was good enough to become the lord’s family. We dragons also don’t all reach wisdom, so we don’t have the right to curse at all humans. Rather, I think I said it in a strong tone. Sorry-』

The words of Bailephus, who had been self-reflecting and adjusting his voice, did not carry on to the end.

Alexander could see why. It was because he could see the dark red aura slowly leaking out of the cave where Faust was tracked.

『……No way!』

『———————-』

“Euhk?!”

A sound that made even Alexander flinch came from outside the cave.

If there was a user around, they would have gotten the paralysis abnormal status condition.

Alexander straightened up and shook his head. It was an extremely loud roar that he had never experienced even at the top of the rankings.

“This looks like the red dragon back then…. Isn’t that right, my partner-”

Alexander looked at Bailephus and fell silent.

The gold dragon’s face completely distorted with anger was no longer the ‘partner’ he knew.

『……This bastard. They are definitely messing with me!』

The reason Leeha dispatched Bailephus and Alexander to the land of death was because this place was the most likely candidate.

Compared to other hideouts in Minis or near the border, the land of the dead was a wasteland that was no one’s territory. It was a place where the most important target, Bluebeard, or the user, Faust, would most likely appear!

Leeha’s best choice was to send a team that could be said to be the most powerful in order to prepare for emergency situation.

“Ba-Bailephus! Partner! Remember your duty as the executioner of justice!”

『Remember! I move because I remember, Alexander!』

Flap—- flap—-!


Of course, this was an unexpected event.

『———————-!』

A sound erupted from the cave once more.

It wasn’t a word or a scream that leaked out through the vocal cords. It was an ominous and very unpleasant noise from a dead creature shaking its body.

A cry of terror to all the dead!

Shiiiiik-!

Suddenly, a black figure popped out of the cave.

At this point, I couldn’t even think of being used like this!

A rotten corpse with torn scales and dark red mana covered its wounded body. The bizarre creature, whether it was its body or mana, flapped its four wings and flew into the sky.

『To enforce that very justice! It is to lead Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh to rest!』

The red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh that Faust had finally summoned.

『Shall we go together, my partner!』

Bailephus cried out to Alexander, and Alexander acted according to his character.

“Of course. I abide by your justice!”

『Let’s go!』

In one quick move, Alexander climbed into Bailephus’ neck.

If anything could be said to be fortunate in an unexpected event, it was that Alexander was more rationally aware of the importance of this quest.

Bailephus’ unexpected was immediately reported to Leeha.

Leeha: What? Can you repeat that? You should have stopped it!

Alexander: I didn’t have time for that. Bailephus is already heading towards the undead dragon.

Leeha: T-then- where, no, wait- ah -! Communication block! You should block the communication! At least stop Faust from whispering!

Alexander: Got it. I’ll tell Bailephus.

Alexander’s carefree words made Leeha’s frustrated and mad. Of all people! The one causing trouble was the one he trusted the most!

‘Damn it……! That’s right, it seemed that he was particularly sensitive to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh……. No, who would have known that something like this would happen?’

It wasn’t what was important now.

Bailephus had already started to fly away, and an unexpected situation happened.

If spilled water cannot be contained, one needs to remove as many items as possible that could get wet.

Alexander: Communication blocking has been activated. Then- I will contact you after we catch Faust.

Leeha: Damn it, now that it’s like this, you must succeed!

Leeha gave instructions to Alexander with a look as if he was about to cry.

It took less than a minute after Leeha’s request to block the communication for Alexander to tell Bailephus and do it.

And it was about two minutes ago that the figures of Bailephus and Alexander reached Faust.

How long was one minute in Middle Earth?

Lee Jiwon: Hyungnim, Igor is on the move. He’s trying to go to a different place~ he turned back?! I got caught-

Click. Lee Jiwon’s whisper got cut off.

Ram Hwajung: I got noticed. Crowley. Kill.

Click. Ram Hwajung’s whisper cut off. Leeha immediately understood the situation. It meant that in the end, everyone got caught with a narrow margin.

‘If this happens, in all three places…. A battle is ensuing! That- the communication is blocked from the other side!’

In Faust’s case, Alexander and Bailephus took the initiative to cut off the communication.

But what about the others?

It meant that Igor and Crowley both blocked communication. What was the reason?

Leeha’s complexion turned blue.

It was like the worst thing imaginable had happened.

“Kyakyakyakya, no wonder my back is itching, a black mosquito is chasing after me, huh?”

Igor smiled, revealing his teeth.

Czar was preparing to work together with Igor, but Lee Jiwon only smiled at that sight.

“Boom, you blocked communication? Do you plan on playing around without knowing how high the sky is, 3rd ranker? You won’t have time to regret it later.”

If it was a one-on-one fight, Lee Jiwon was very good at it.

He may seem like a user who usually uses ‘slang’ and has no communication skills, but he was worthy to be ranked 2nd in the Middle Earth rankings.

Lee Jiwon was so confident in his skills that he even called Igor 3rd ranker.

Igor smiled bitterly at him as Lee Jiwon confidently pulled out his black sword.

“That’s right…… I was ranked 3rd. I was in the 3rd place. Kyahahaha!”

“Huh? You’re laughing? Are you crazy?”

“I’m ranked 3rd. A little bastard like you is ranked 2nd, and I am ranked 3rd.”

“Isn’t that natural because I am good at this game? I get recognition left and right, so what’s the point in you recognizing me?”

“Tsk tsk, you still can’t figure out the situation…… why I am blocking the communication, and pointing my sword at you. Black-headed mosquito bastard.”

Igor’s expression slowly began to contort. His fierce obsession with the rankings was shown in his facial expression.

Chuk一 chuk- chuck一

Czar also had a perfect many-to-one formation according to Igor’s will. They were already ready for battle, using all kinds of resistance and status abnormality potions and scrolls.

“……What situation? Is it the situation where I get to beat you old foggies?”

“It means that the rankings will be turned upside down from today! Attack!”

Yes, sir!

Igor and Czar rushed. Their speed was more than 40% faster than Lee Jiwon’s expectation.

“What? Is this the power of the Demon King-”

“Kyahahahaha, I’ll grind you!”

Claaaang!!!

Igor’s sawblade-like sword collided with Lee Jiwon’s black sword.

In the lush Rano Forest, an unexpected battle between the 2nd and 3rd rankers began.

(To be continued…)
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 “Yoi~ Hoi~ who is this~? Did our little lady come all the way here because she missed her oppa? Kihihit!”

Crowley laughed as he raised his sunglasses and threw them over his forehead.

His flirtatious body movement while looking at Ram Hwajung was not a pleasant sight.

“……Perverted bastard.”

“Ohh noo! Why are you saying something like that to this oppa! We were on the same side once, isn’t it?”

“So unlucky.”

“Byulcho? Where was it? We fought together against them and did well, so why are you being like that? You have already forgotten the fun times-”

“Ice spear.”

Ram Hwajung did not wait.

When her skill, close to instant casting, began, a spear of ice the size of a tree shot out.

Shwiiiiiiik.

“Udadadat,Nu-Nudugi!”

Baaaaang——-!

As Crowley hurriedly jumped back and shouted, a gigantic hand rose up from the ground he was standing on.

“Uhihihi, didn’t you know this? Now! Wake up, nudugi! Should we stop and listen to the cute lady first?”

After attacking Gaza City, the tattered golem made from the wreckage was still maintained.

Creaaak, creaaak，

Rocks and pebbles splashed and the ground slowly began to rise. Crowley was on the Tino Riverside near Gaza City.

The reason he dared to run away to the riverside was to hide his golem. More than half of the giant golem’s body was submerged in water.

Huwoooo


The giant golem, about 14m tall, roared.

The appearance of water dripping from the top of its head seemed so imposing that it did not fit the name Nudugi.

“What?! This is my masterpiece! If my Nudugi had the right weapon, he could even kill a dragon 1:1-”

“Lame. Ice wall. Ice blast.”

The overwhelming form of the giant golem and Crowley’s noise barrage could not change Ram Hwajung’s expression.

She briefly gave her impressions and immediately conducted double casting for each.

Gwachachacha-!

A wall of ice protruded from the golem’s chest.

“Hoooo?! Is the golem’s body judged as ‘terrain’? Can’t that magic be used on the ground?”

Huge chunks of ice leaped out to hit the frozen wall in an instant.

Ice Blast, which boasts overwhelming coldness than Ice Spear, crashed into the ice wall. The golem faltered for a moment, but that was it.

***

“Kuhahaha! That’s not enough! You can’t kill Nudugi with just that!”

Crowley roared proudly. When broken pieces of ice sparkled and flew near the golem’s chest, Ram Hwajung’s real magic was released.

“Freezing.”

Hwiiii..

It was a magic attack magic that freezes certain parts, but it was for more than the status, but not now.

Each and every one of her magic acted as coolant.

What was the condition of the golem?

The giant tattered golem still dripped river water from all over its body, and fragments of her cool mana were scattered around the water.


“What is this…?”

Kadudududu, Kadudududuk.

In other words, it meant that the environment was very suitable for freezing.

Crowley looked at his golem with a bewildered expression.

He had seen many scenes of ice cracking, but it was the first time he saw ice form and spread.

The ice wall rose, and starting from the point where the ice blast collided, all wet parts of the golem began to freeze.

It took less than 2 minutes for about 70% of the 14m tall tattered golems to freeze.

As soon as she saw the huge and slow golem, she intuitively sensed that a part of the body of the golem

 is judged as ‘terrain’.

It was a quick and bold decision that could only be made by her, who was called the genius of Middle Earth.

“Phew……. Now, it’s your turn.”

However, even for Ram Hwajung, it was not an easy situation.

As soon as her double casting was over, she cast freezing for more than 2 minutes and poured mana into it.

Furthermore, since she had demonstrated four different types of skills so far in such a short time, both her concentration and mana had been rapidly consumed.

“W-w-w-w-wait! It is sad if you kill me like this! I haven’t seen you in such a long time-”

“Die.”

Ram Hwajung lightly cut off his words. Blue grains gathered in her body.

“Ahhhh-! You can’t do it! You can’t……. That’s right. I said it would not work. Kuhuhuhu.”

Crowley laughed as he watched the scene where the magic that could possibly lead to death was being cast.

He took out yellow reagents from his bag.


“I haven’t had any fun yet, so you have to die! Kilkil, rise, nudugi!”

Crowley tossed the reagent bottles he held in his fingers as hard as he could, like a baseball player.

Hwiii- the reagent bottles that flew through the wind touched the golem’s chest and flashed as it broke. crash-!.

Ram Hwajung laughed while watching the scene.

“It’s no use. Abnormal Status potion will not melt ice-”

Hudududuk……. Hudududuk…

Before she could finish her words, the ice wrapped around the golem’s body began to crack. The ice shattered, and fell, and the ice shards bounced.

It wasn’t just ice, it was the ice magic of Middle Earth’s genius who was ranked 9th….

“……No way.”

The blue grains that went into Ram Hwajung’s body disappeared in an instant. It meant that she was so shocked that it was hard to concentrate on casting.

“Huhihihi! Don’t you remember? Or maybe your older sister did not tell you anything? This is the result of my research at the time! I made the perfect thawing potion, this is it!”

Crowley danced, dangling his elongated body.

Just before the final battle between Hwahong and Byulcho, Crowley sneakily showed Ram Hwayeon the same potion.

“Piss……!”

“Oh, my? You remember! That’s right. Of course, it’s not a real piss, but it’s an improved version of that time! Hahahat!”

Even the Middle Earth’s genius would not have been able to accurately predict the dynamics.

It’s just Crowley and here here. Why did Crowley cut off space and communication in the first place, even though there was no one to help him?

Because of his own disposition prone to pedophilia?

“Nooow, nudugi! Go and grab that little girl tightly! And rise stone golems! Go and help your hyungnim!”

That wasn’t it. Crowley was also a famous outsider in Middle Earth. He has the ability to read the flow.

In other words, Crowley was confident about getting Ram Hwajung.

Crowley cast another skill. Hands and feet began to get attached to the rocks near the riverside.

“Blizzard.”

Ram Hwajung immediately began casting wide-range magic. But the 14-meter-high golem’s stride was wider than she expected.

Kuuuung, kuuung……. The giant ragged golem and ordinary stone golems were rapidly closing the distance toward Ram Hwajung.

“Oh, blizzard!”

Crowley suddenly began to salivate.

“This is exactly what I really wanted to see. Wouldn’t it be possible to make a similar rapid-cooling potion if I could collect that cooling mana?”

Even while Ram Hwajung’s strongest magic was being cast, Crowley’s eyes were sparkling.

His obsession fits perfectly with his title Mad Scientist!

As if proving that something was wrong with him somewhere to get that kind of title in Middle Earth, he held a reagent that had never been seen before and danced around.

“Of course, that isn’t all! Disturb her, boys! Kihihik Hut, run!”

The speed of the stone golems increased even more as he danced.

Kuuung, kuuuung-!

Nudugi also sped up, stepping on the stone golems.

“Keu.”

Ram Hwajung’s expression distorted and her mana flow was shaken for a moment. But she is Middle Earth’s genius that no one can match! She was also a hard-working genius. It was no exaggeration to say that her skill, move-casting, had improved compared to the past, and is now unmatched in Middle Earth.

Casting her strongest area of effect magic, she started running.

And backward at that.

“B-backstep?! Uhat! Moving while casting blizzard?”

Crowley was flabbergasted. He was well aware of Ram Hwajung’s greatness. However, Ram Hwajung’s movement was so great that it was an understatement to say that it was great.

Just walking and moving was already top-notch. Move casting was ranker level, but how can casting while running backward be described?

Every time her snakelike legs stepped on gravel by the riverside, her body moved backward as if she were a ranger.

Even if the speed of the stone golem became faster, they couldn’t catch up because they were slow to begin with, but even the ragged golem couldn’t keep up with her speed.

What about the blizzard which was not shaken at all?

The target and magic range run on the backstep, continuously checking, and securing a safe distance to get your body out.

“Kihihihit, no way! Where are you going? Give me that mana coolant before going!”

Only then did Crowley, feeling the ominous energy, start running frantically, but it was after all the blue grains had already entered Ram Hwajung’s body.

“Get away.”

Paaaaat

She lifted her arms into the air and fired mana. In an instant, hail and snowstorm began to pour from the sky.

“Kihiik-! M-my golem, daaaaamn it, ram Hwajeooooooong-!”

Crowley poured thawing potions on his body and ran forward, but the strong wind of the blizzard did not allow it.

Hwauuuu ——-!

“Keuuuut, Kiyooooot-! My goleeeeem! Uwaaaaak?!”

The tattered golem, far from Crowley, tried to catch Ram Hwajung, but it was impossible. The golems slowly froze to a halt, an environment where he himself could no longer move.

His mischievous expression turned ferocious.

“This damned bitch is asking me to go out of business! I have a lot of experience with all or nothing!”

Crowley poured the thawing potion and escaped the Blizzard’s freezing effect, took out all sorts of reagent bottles from his bag, and threw them at random.

The reagents flew everywhere, some got caught in the blizzard, some got smashed by the falling hail, and some were simply stuck in the ground…….

Crack, crack!

With the sound of glass breaking, various chemicals soaked Crowley’s surroundings.

“I should have collected and researched it – but that’s what happens when you hold on to a bitch and get tickled, hihihihi?! Rise up, ice Fairy- Kehek!”

Crowley’s body staggered after getting hit by a hailstone while spreading his arms and scattering mana.

However, he did not die with that one shot.

The man that escaped from his body flowed into the reagents he had scattered.

Crack- Pakakakakikik…….

It was then that a strange noise began to echo in the air.

The blizzard’s strong winds were still continuing, but the snowstorm, which seemed to block all view, and the hailstones, which were enough to lose consciousness with just one shot, calmed down.

“.. My mana.”

Not only did it calm down, but the hailstones and snowflakes were coming together.

It was quite a shock to Ram Hwajung as well. Her own mana became the opponent’s strength?!

“S-success?! Uhahaha! Great! Now, hehehe, this bitch’s mana! Use ice magic or whatever you like!”

It was an ice-type golem.

In a sense, it was the worst monster for Ram Hwajung.

“Ice spear, ice spread.”

Shuuuuk, shuuuk-!

TT꾸, tT^T”!

The sharp spears of ice flew through the blizzard’s gale but to no avail. Rather, it only had the effect of throwing another ball of mud into a pile of mud.

“Nuokk-! Kuoek-!”

Kududuk, kududuk.

As the ice spear disappeared, the ice golem grew in size. The ice spear was absorbed by the ice golem.

“Do you think that the mana made of the same source will work? Kuhahahat! Shit! I should have taken the refrigerant before throwing the regent, I should have collected the coolants!”

Crowley felt it was a pity for the Crowleys that he threw away all of his reagents.

“No, go to the ice-”

Shyuuk-!

It was already 15 minutes later when Crowley, who still had a psychotic spirit, shouted out his joy and a little bit of sadness that his experiment had succeeded.

Ram Hwajung used teleport without any hesitation.

(To be continued…)
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 “Is this the only power of the 2nd in the ranking, huh?! Kihahaha! What-”

Igor’s sawblade coated with blood before he knew it.

Strength wasn’t the only trait of a giant’s race, but also speed, which was raised by demonic mana.

It was only natural that the smile from Lee Jiwon’s face disappeared.

After narrowly cutting off his sword and making a big movement, Lee Jiwon widened the distance.

He was a magic swordsman who handled the sword as well as a swordsman class, but his true value was revealed when there was harmony between sword and magic…

Black mana grains entered Leeh Jiwon’s body in an instant.

“Sol blaze, corona Zet.”

Hwaruruk-

He swung the black sword that started to burn, flame magic that was like the sun exploded!

“Cross Guard!”

“Cross Guard!”

“Health Share!”

However, the sun-like explosion did not reach Igor.

Three members of Czar squeezed in the gap between Lee Jiwon and Igor, and used their skills simultaneously!

Swish- swish-!

Two thick crosses made of sword energy created a barrier.

And the Corona Zet exploded there.

Claaaang, all the flames vanished along with the noise, leaving nothing but black smoke.

Lee Jiwon’s pupils dilated as he saw the black smoke that had been spewed out like steam disappear.


“……Wow, you guys are still alive? Is Igor right about me dying?”

Only three members of Czar, whose level was much lower than Igor’s, blocked his skill.

However, as if they were barely damaged, the three Czar members stumbled and casually took out potion bottles.

Just as Lee Jiwon pointed his sword again, Igor, who was behind the Czar members, rushed with a leap.

“Kuhahaha! Look it up on the internet and find out how it was possible!”

Of course, there was no way a ranker like Lee Jiwon was ignorant about Czar’s skills.

In addition to the skill to defend using sword energy, the three Czar members also used a skill to connect and spread the damage.

However, it was surprising to Lee Jiwon that they managed to withstand his attack with ‘only that level of defense’.

In this one clash, Lee Jiwon could predict the direction of the fight.

There were still 15 Czar members remaining.

Even though the three Czar members stumbled, they would quickly recover if they drank a potion.

Igor did not suffer any damage yet, but rather, he was getting stronger as he subtly absorbed Leeh Jiwon’s HP.

What would be the best way?

“Telep-”

“The space is blocked! Blood Jet!”

“-ort.”

Igor shouted urgently at the same time he unleashed the blood jets, but Lee Jiwon was faster. His body disappeared at about the same time as the space-blocking magic was lifted.

He didn’t use his usual slang or provoking words to the other person.

At the place where Lee Jiwon disappeared, his two eyes briefly flashed like an afterimage.

***


『You filthy necromancer! It is not enough that you became a representative of a Demon King’s sculpture! You even disturbed a dragon’s rest!』

“Alexander? Bailephus?”

Faust involuntarily took a step back. He just took out Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s corpse from the Resurrection Graveyard to test the commands in advance, but why did the gold dragon and 1st ranked user appear?

‘Where did they come from?’

But his worries were short-lived. Because it didn’t matter now.

It was after Faust had already blown.

“Lance Transform! Charging!” Shwaaaaaaaa-!

Light streamed from the long spear Alexander was holding.

Holding the ‘Lance of Light’, so to speak, that kept its light even after the transformation, Alexander leaned against Bailephus’ neck and squeezed the hilt.

“This is not a personal fight between rankers. I will punish Faust for the good of Middle Earth.”

“Haha, you, you, you’re still the same even though we haven’t seen each other for such a long time!”

『You can still laugh in the face of my breath, filthy servant!』

“I don’t know what made you angry, but if it’s an enemy you are looking for, then it wouldn’t be me gold dragon.”

Faust grinned and snapped his fingers. It was at that time that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s corpse turned around.

The red dragon, with more than half of its head cut off and still faceless, charged at Bailephus with a more grotesque than before.

『Is this the result of living for 5,000 years, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh! Why are you so obsessed with life, even forgetting your Dragon’s pride and cutting off your rest!』

Bailephus cried out as if howling, but Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh could not give a normal answer. His body, which had no vocal cords, only made unpleasant vibrating sounds that trembled.

『————–!』

In the end, Bailephus, who tried to fire a breath on Faust, had no choice but to turn his head toward Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who was flying at high speed.

His speed never slowed down even in front of the super-heated white fire breath.


Hwaaaang, it was at that time that a translucent shield was created in front of the headless Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

『——』

『Foolish! Do you think you can block my breath with your shield without a dragon heart?!』

“Even more so, I have my charging. Go back to rest, pitiful red dragon!”

Faust didn’t panic even as he watched the breath start to burn the shield and Alexander’s ‘Spear of Light’ tried to hit the shield.

“Heuheu, it’s different from before. Now, it can use the demon king’s mana indefinitely. Of course, with my help…”

Ttak-!

Almost as soon as Faust snapped his fingers, the translucent shield was completely covered in black.

A coating so thick that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh beyond the shield could not be seen. That black shield blocked Bailephus’ breath.

『What?!』

“How dare you look down on it, did you think it was an ordinary undead dragon?! Dark Promotion!”

It was a skill that injected Faust’s mana into a summoned undead target and promoted it to a higher-leveled monster.

Even if he lost his dragon heart and had no head, what if the ancient dragon, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, got promoted using dark promotion?

『—–!———』

Pududuk, pududuk-!

Two additional wings sprouted from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body, which went mad with pain.

Spreading its six wings, the undead red dragon rushed at Bailephus and Alexander without hesitation.

Magic shot from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s body in an instant.

It was similar to Flame Strike, but the flames stained black with the demon king’s mana shook unpleasantly.

“Bailephus!”

『Hmm! Dispel, dispel!』

And from 22 in the past, it now numbered 30.

Considering that the number of simultaneous castings tells the caster’s level, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was stronger than in the past. Bailephus’ quick dispel shone, but Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s next attack was already on the way.

“Spin Spear!”

Baaaaang-!

As Alexander spun his spear, a huge whirlwind appeared in front of Bailephus. It took only a few seconds for Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s claws and the dark red mana to touch.

Pachichichik-! Along with the noise, the barrier skill began to break down.

『————–!!1

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh unleashed an onslaught with a ghastly noise.

Alexander and Bailephus used defensive skills to block, and Alexander used an attack skill to counter Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s attack, while Bailephus used magic to distract him….

Unlike when the dragons fought 1:1 in the past, this time Alexander was also involved, but the undead Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh did not get pushed back.

『How did the Demon King’s Fragment make you, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh?! You can’t become this strong when you become an undead! Was it your will to be with the demons!』

The gold dragon’s mouth burst out with sadness as someone who was of the ‘same species’ that transcended even the relationship of metal, chromatic, and long-time rivals.

Of course, those were not mere cries.

Conversations between NPCs always had the purpose of informing the surrounding users of specific information.

Alexander, listening to Bailephus, could have some idea of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s current state.

“Bailephus, partner.”

『What’s is it?!』

Baaaang-!

Meanwhile, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s attacks were unstoppable.

Alexander looked down for a moment after examining the two fiercely fighting beings.

He knew exactly what he had to do to end this situation.

“Our original purpose is to kill the Demon King’s army’s agents.”

『I know that too! However, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh-』

“I will leave the undead dragon to you.”

Alexander interrupted Bailephus, took out a scroll from his bag, and jumped off the dragon’s neck. From the air where the dragons raged, Alexander landed slowly.

“Keuk,what? I didn’t raise my level on purpose, but I raised my stats a lot. It’s a shame to see you, ranked 1st, and your dragon getting pushed back…… even though you are together. I have to film and upload this so that more people will join our Demon King’s army-”

“Shut your filthy mouth, Faust!”

Looking at the lively white lizard. Alexander raised his spear with both hands, and light began to flash from his spear.

“Huh? Can you stop me? What can you do without your dragon? You’re not even at Pei Wu’s level…”

As soon as Faust finished speaking, the chimeras and the promoted undead started hitting the wall in front of them.

Leeha’s flamethrower melted more than 10 chimeras, but there were still about 15 chimeras left. Not to mention, even the ‘basic’ monsters that were promoted to Undead Executioners and Dullahans would also be powerful.

“Do you know who I am?”

“I know. That’s what I am saying. Can a dragon knight with just a spear and a little magic pierce my chimeras?”

“Divine power charging.”

huuuuu….uuu.

Alexander’s shining spear stretched out in an instant.

Since he was not riding a mount, he was just standing, so the spear that was close to 10m long could be difficult to hold even at the center of gravity, but he did not have any problem.

“I am not a mere dragon knight.”

“What?”

“I am the number one in the rankings, the representative of all Middle Earth users, and the guardian of the ‘Sun’-”

Huuuuu——- Pachichicik- Pachuchuchu-!

The divine energy in Alexander’s spear was emitting light that he couldn’t even see properly.

Just when the clash of energies sounded rather ominous to Faust, Alexander took the first step.

“-Alexander ‘The Great’-”

Like a pole vaulter running, Alexander set his long spear horizontally and started running toward Faust.

“-Look closely at the power of the emperor.『Judgement of Justice』.”

Baaaaang-

The light emitted from the spear enveloped Alexander’s entire body.

Faust hurriedly commanded the undead as he saw Alexander, who had turned into a pointy, huge mass of light.

“eeek-! What skill is that…? Stop, stop it!”

“Kadududuk. ”

“Grrrr-!”

The undead ran toward Alexander, and the chimeras squirmed and moved, leaving behind acidic ooze on the floor.

The numerous monsters that filled the gap between Faust and Alexander were like scribbles on white drawing paper.

And Alexander was nothing more than a pure white lump of paint.

Every time Alexander, wrapped in light, ran, all the dirty scribbles that were cluttering the drawing paper simply evaporated into white and disappeared.

Neither the roar of the undead nor the cry of the chimera could be heard.

There was the sound of light emanating from the spear Alexander was holding and wrapped around him. Except for the reverent sound effects, Faust didn’t even hear the sound of the undead breaking or chimeras exploding.

“What- Bone Shield! Body wall! Dark Barrier”

Before the undead and chimera were annihilated, Faust quickly set up a triple shield in front of him.

However, neither the shield made of bones, the wall made of solidified corpses, nor the barrier made of mana of darkness could stop Alexander’s charge.

It was literally the judgment of the absolute.

There was only one thing Faust could do.

“U-Undead Nest! Teleport!” It was to escape by barely scraping together summoned creatures that have not yet been judged.

(To be continued…)
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 Tak, tak, tak, tak…….

Only after they were all gone did Alexander stop charging. The light emitted from the spear faded in line with his slowly stopping footsteps.

『Alexander!』

“Bailephus.”

In the place where Faust and all the undead disappeared, only traces of the emperor’s tracks remained.

“We need to contact Ha Leeha.”

『Do it right now.』

Faust ran away not long after Lee Jiwon and Ram Hwajung retreated.

Leeha: Come again?

After receiving the whisper, Leeha just wanted to cry.

He just got a call from Lee Jiwon and Lim Hwajung.

And what else is Alexander saying now?

“Did I miss anything..?! No, I didn’t miss anything.”

“What, what’s wrong with your face? Are you listening?”

Ram Hwayeon spoke to Leeha without knowing what was going on. Leeha summarized the current situation.

‘It’s accidental, but considering the war, at least two teams have almost been killed. But none of the teams- however, even Alexander couldn’t catch Faust?’

At least Alexander was able to drive Faust away.

It meant that if it wasn’t for Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s interference, Bailephus could have blocked the space.

But what about the other two teams?

‘Lee Jiwon and Ram Hwajung had a tie- no, they are prideful so they said it was a tie… but they lost.’


The individual battle score was 1:2.

It was as if the board of the subjugation operation against the Demon King’s army, which Leeha had barely gained the upper hand, had suddenly tilted.

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi, I need to go and take a look.”

“What? Where?”

“Look at the city for a while. Sorry.”

“Ha Leeha?! Wait-! Where are you going-”

Shyuuk-! Leeha momentarily looked at the friend’s window and immediately activated the crystal ball.

“Huuk, huuk, huuk……. Crowley? Igor?”

“Kyahahaha! You’re late! You told us to come here-”

“Shh. Shut up and check first. The same goes for you, Igor. Have you contacted Chiyou?”

“What are you talking about, you damned lizard?”

“Have you ever contacted Chiyou?! Or, I want you to check to see if any of Chiyou’s spies have followed you!”

Faust also contacted Crowley and Igor right before escaping from Alexander, so it was not unusual for them to meet.

Igor and Crowley, who arrived first, had a triumphant look on their faces, but Faust prioritized checking.

“No! Go to the tavern that high-demand bitch and play properly-”

“No, we will do no such thing in the future. At least as long as we belong to the Demon King’s army.”

Faust mercilessly cut off Crowley’s excited words.

Hearing the conversation, Igor grinned and smiled.

“I see. You mean that damned whore sold us out?”

“Probably……. All the places we were staying were provided by her.”


Faust gritted his teeth and muttered. Only then did Crowley realize the seriousness of the situation.

“Waaa? Come to think of it, it really is like that! Chiyou told me about it, and it was a secret that no one knew about! The 1st, 2nd, and 9th rankers appeared as if they had been waiting for us!”

There were no idiots from the Demon King’s army who would dismiss it as a mere ‘coincidence’. It was only natural for them to suspect Chiyou.

No one had even registered her as a friend, and all of them had blocked off her whispers.

“For the time being we have to take advantage of the circumstances, we will have to go on foot.”

“Kukukuku, where are we going? Do we have anywhere to go? It’s not easy to avoid because that madwoman’s eyes are everywhere.”

Faust gave a quick order, and Igor showed his teeth and smiled. His expression showed the joy of defeating Lee Jiwon and was able to greatly preserve Czar’s power.

Faust pondered for a moment before opening his mouth. He knew for a fact that Chiyou’s unknown ‘information network’ was excellent. Moreover, she belonged to Minis.

Getting out of her backyard was the first priority.

“……Let’s go to Fibiel.”

“You want to cross the border?”

“If we go there, there is something that could give us strength. Are you ready?”

Although their plans changed a little, Faust was determined.

‘The quest rewards changes in proportion to the damage done to humanity and its duration. I can never get caught.’

If they logged out for a certain period of time, the quest would be lost, so the Demon King’s army’s soldiers are forced to move only inside Middle Earth.

“What are you thinking about?! Let’s go! It’s a pity that there are only a few reagent bottles left, but-”

Crowley whizzed around, and in the space where there was nothing until just now, an ice golem fell.

Craash-! And started rebuilding itself.

“-I’m not like I was before. But I still have Nudugi.”

Looking at Crowley’s strength, Faust nodded.


“……Good. Igor?”

“This is driving me crazy. The three bastards that I wanted to kill are already after us.”

“You need to be careful of Ha Leeha as much as them.”

Faust’s ability wasn’t shallow either, he was able to assume that Ha Leeha would be chasing them without being told by Chiyou.

“Kyahahaha, that’s even better. Very good. Whether they are rankers or outsiders, they can come anytime. I will squeeze the blood out of all of them.”

“Let’s move as soon as the sun goes down.”

Of course, it was his mistake to assume that he wouldn’t be able to rally the rankers or bring about any change to the situation.

As soon as the sun went down, the Demon King’s army began to move, and it wasn’t until a while later that Chiyou found out.

It was at that moment that the face of the intelligence guild guild master crumpled.

*** Chiyou vented her anger to her heart’s content in a high-class bar she owned.

“You weren’t able to find Faust?!”

“Sorry. Oka-san. Marking does not work on-”

“Eeek-! P-please, drink more water!”

Shinobigumi’s men could not chase them as Faust’s group completely hid their tracks.

There were users with tracking and hunting skills, however, the level of their skills was not enough to chase after Faust, Igor, and Crowley.

“How on earth did those guys know about our hideout?! You said that Ha Leeha stayed in the same place! You said he did not contact Alexander or Lee Jiwon!”

It was just as Faust had worried about. Chiyou had also laid enough ‘eyes’ around the jungle he had designated for them.

It was after they had already heard reports that Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Ram Hwajung appeared.

“That…… I’m sorry. We have yet to determine whether Ha Leeha had something to do with them-”

“Are you blind? Sasuke! Are you a fool?! Don’t you have any idea why rivals like Alexander and Lee Jiwon worked together?! It means someone is behind them! If it is related to the Demon King’s quest, of course, it is Ha Leeha!”

Chiyou was indeed the head of the Intelligence Guild. She was able to put all the pieces together. Sasuke just kept his head down like a criminal.

“And most importantly, Ram Hwajung also made a move! It was already in front of your eyes, Ram Hwajung was sitting next to Ha Leeha!”

“I thought she went to Castle Dale-”

“-Huuuuu……”

Chiyou closed her mouth. It was because it was she herself who made Sasuke think that ‘Ram Hwajung would have gone to Castle Dale.

“Did you say Ha Leeha disappeared again?”

“Yes.”

“Call all of Shinobigumi. Stop everything you’re doing and focus on a new target.”

“.. I don’t know how to say it but, is Bluebeard that important?”

“Of course. That NPC is the center of Middle Earth 『Phase 2』! How long will we live under the control of trash NPCs or users? If we want to be able to hold this continent we need to get in touch with NPCs like that.”

“I understand. Then the new targets…”

Sasuke did not finish his words.

The subordinate, who completely trusted her judgment, waited for a new order from her.

“The Three Musketeers, Ha Leeha, Kidd, and Luger. Fibiel’s NPC Browless, Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Ram Hwajung. And the Demon King’s army or the demon noble monsters. In other words, spread the name of everyone involved in this case. You have to find them no matter what. Now that we know we can’t find Bluebeard ourselves, we have no choice but to follow them.”

“Understood!”

In the confrontation between the subjugation team and the Demon King’s army.

They had to hide, seek, and pursue, and they were playing hide and seek, pouring all their information, connections, and knowledge.

Another disadvantage for Chiyou was that she had a very wide field of vision. Having a wide field of vision would sometimes cause her to have a hard time seeing those who are hiding beneath her feet.

Chiyou couldn’t even guess who was in the huge new restaurant on the southwestern outskirts of Gaza City, exactly symmetrical with Chiyou’s pub located on the northeastern outskirts of Gaza City.

A building was under construction, southwest of the Gaza City.

It was a boutique Leeha had designed in order to bring profits, and was in progress at the same time as Ram Hwayeon’s urban restoration.

Its main purpose was to gather information, and at the time they would have never thought that it would be used as a hideout, but they instinctively felt that it was ‘Divine Intervention’.

Worker NPCs could be seen moving back and forth from time to time, but even they did not know what kind of people were gathered on the 3rd floor inside the building.

“Thank you, madam.”

“It is nothing. You didn’t forget the tax rate benefit for 3 months, right?”

“That promise was related to the hatchling, right? I haven’t checked the data yet, so there’s no definitive answer… I will definitely repay you for providing me with a shelter like this.”

“Huhut, you are thorough. Still, I liked that side of Ha Leeha-ssi. Then, have a good time everyone! Don’t worry, I will stop other people from going up!”

Ju left the room winking at the gathered people.

Click- Leeha’s expression changed horribly at the sound of the door closing.

“Do you know what the situation is like now?”

Leeha’s voice was different from his usual voice.

The atmosphere made the people gathered in the room look at each other.

Of course, among them were Luger and Kidd, who were fiddling with their guns with expressions that made it seem like what was happening had nothing to do with them.

“I am sorry. The moment I saw Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s undead form, I was not able to control myself. As an ancient, I feel like I lack diligence.”

Bailephus, wearing golden armor, was the first to speak speak. The gold dragon bowed its head.

Alexander, who was next to him, also bowed lightly, but there was no way that Leeha’s anger could be relieved.

“No, that- Haaa……. Bailephus-ssi, you are over 5000 years old, aren’t you?! If you are that old, you should have – you should have endured such an important moment! You just needed to follow them! If you had followed them all the way to their gathering location, we could have wiped them out in one fell swoop! No, if you were going to be impatient, you should have at least killed Faust! You missed the chance-”

“……I am sorry.”

How many users could receive an apology from an ancient gold dragon?

However, no one in the room paid attention to that.

Lee Jiwon-ssi and Ram Hwajung-ssi both have their own pride that got trampled on.

“Haaa… . What is that? Not only in terms of position difference, but also in terms of skill, but it is enough! You were about to lose and ran away like that.

-”

“I didn’t lose. It’s a draw.”

“Hyung-nim! Did you just say I ran away?! Wasn’t Igor was on the brink of death?”

“Just admit it, no matter how many times you say it’s a draw, you lost. It’s because you ran away while fighting those who have lower skills..”

“Haha. You should have left that to me. What did you expect leaving it to shitheads? The one who came up with such a strategy is stupid.”

“Shut up, Luger. I don’t want to waste energy right now.”

Luger found it nice to see that people who have more fame than him got scolded by Leeha. He was smiling.

Leeha sent a whisper to Fernand, barely holding back his desire to hit Luger.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha: Did you find anything?

Fernand: I have investigated the place where Faust was found, it is close to where Igor was. But…… How come the direction they went the same?

Nara: What?

Fernand: I need to check more first, this might be a blessing in disguise. The last traces of Faust and Igor, where both of their mana moved were almost the same. Oh- I can’t make the assumption that Bluebeard would be there, but I’ll tell you once I finish examining and comparing Crowley’s traces with their current location.

Since the traces left in Gaza City were old, it was impossible for Fernand to investigate in detail.

However, the traces were found in the places where the battle literally ‘just’ took place, and the results exceeded Leeha’s expectations.

‘What..? They have scattered and hidden until now, but they are now grouped up in one place? No, I have to wait until the investigation on Crowley is over to find out……’

Why?

If they are going to group up, shouldn’t they have grouped up sooner?

Why have they scattered before and grouped up now?

‘Thanks to Alexander and Bailephus, the number of chimeras was cut in half, still, as long as there are undead, it will be difficult to stick together.’

That was probably why they were scattered in the first place. In order to leave their traces to a minimum.

However, if they group up now, there would be several reasons for that.

‘Are they feeling a sense of crisis…? No, that alone doesn’t make sense. As long as they sensed that we were chasing them, they would know that it would be easier to catch them if they grouped together.’

Only animals like rats would group together when frightened.

People on the level of Faust, Igor, and Crowley couldn’t have planned such a strategy.

Most importantly, even if only one person was ‘marked’, wouldn’t all of them be in danger?

In reality, there was no need to gather in Middle Earth, where there was a means of long-distance communication like ‘whisper’.

‘If so…… are they confident that they could deal with us?’

Leeha shook his head. That, too, was unlikely.


Igor and Czar made Lee Jiwon retreat, and Crowley also made Ram Hwajung retreat, but it was because of the situation.

What if Lee Jiwon and Ram Hwajung switched opponents?

What if Alexander and Bailephus were added? The result could be reversed at any time.

‘There’s no way those guys don’t know that. Then it means that they have another person to deal with us…… is it safe to assume that it’s because Bluebeard is there?’

That was the first possibility. They were currently with Bluebeard. Then, no matter who appeared, such as Alexander or Bailephus, they had the confidence to deal with them. However, Leeha did not think so.

‘Wouldn’t it have been better if they had brought Bluebeard? At the time when the three teams were fighting individually, it would have been easy for Bluebeard to kill them one by one. Why were they gathering……‘?’ It was weird.

Reflecting on their movements so far was by no means a rational thing to do. Leeha felt a certain sense of incongruity in their movements.

‘They are obviously at odds with the ‘hidden hand’. If they had an information network all over the continent, they would be able to tell Faust all kinds of hideouts that no one else knows.’

Nevertheless, they had gathered. In one place.

‘If only I could confirm one thing…’

Fernand: I finished checking Crowley’s previous location! It’s the same! Faust, Igor, and Crowley are moving toward the same place!

It was then that Fernand’s whisper came.

“Everyone!”

While Leeha organized his thoughts, the people immersed in their own thoughts raised their heads.

“Would you like to listen to me?”

“Tsk, we’re going to do what you just suggested anyway. You’re just saying that to make it look like you’re persuading us…’

Kidd snorted and answered.

“Huh?! Y-You should still listen to it, Kidd! What are you talking about? It’s embarrassing.”

“Ha Leeha, that means your thoughts are just as useful. Please tell us.”

Perhaps, if there was someone who believes in Leeha more than Ram Hwajung, it would be Kidd.


The playful attitude made the atmosphere soften a little.

Leeha began to share his speculation with the Demon King’s army subjugation team, which was directly assigned a mission by the pope.

“……They might not have Bluebeard. And the ‘hidden hand’ might have let go of them.”

Leeha bullets of reasoning hit close to the correct answer.

What remained was to shoot the last shot hit the target.

* * *

Rustle rustle.

Wearing his wide-brimmed hat tightly pressed down, fernand made his way through the thick grass in the darkness.

He was an adventurer who knew not only the geography of the area but also the presence or absence of monsters just by looking around, but it was a place that even he had to be careful.

‘The three of them had definitely gathered around here…’

After reporting his findings to Leeha, he received a new order to investigate the area.

It was decided that it would be better to ask Fernand to investigate this location instead of following those people who were good at fighting because it might backfire.

‘I don’t feel any mana around here. In terms of the mana radius of where the three groups moved, this area was clearly the intersection point…..’

Not even Fernand knew everything.

He only knew that the mana found in the trace was currently ‘near’ at some point, so he had to investigate it anew based on various data.

‘This place can’t even be called a hideout. The terrain around this area and the monsters that were revealed appeared in the early stages of Middle Earth. I won’t be here long. I will definitely move again. I have to find the place where they gathered before the trace disappears- ah!’

Fernand, who had been looking around through the magnifying glass, finally saw a trace.

It was somewhere dark blue footprints were scattered.

When the magnifying glass was removed, there was not even a trace of the floor, but as soon as he put the magnifying glass again, the blue footprints were revealed.

‘Found it! If it’s this color- they haven’t left for more than an hour! They moved as soon as the sun had set! Where to? Who?’


Already aware that no one was around, fernand was in no hurry. This is because there might be an NPC that was not affected by his trace-finding skills.

He was always at his own pace when talking to someone, but he was the ‘pioneering king’ in name and reality.

In less than 20 minutes of starting his investigation, fernand had everything figured out.

Fernand: Ha Leeha-ssi! I found a trace! Faust, Crowley, Igor, Czar, undead, and even chimera! All of their traces are here!

Leeha: R-really? Anything else? Is there anything else?!

Fernand: It’s as Leeha-ssi said!

As Leeha talked to the subjugation team members, he also spoke to Fernand.

But until just now, it was only all just speculation. The final work to confirm the conjecture as fact remained.

Leeha: As I said……?

Gulp, listening to Fernand’s excited voice, Leeha was convinced.

Fernand: He is not here! Bluebeard’s mana trace could not be found anywhere here! I will tell you again, it is a fact that Bluebeard is not currently with the Demon King’s army! Those bastards are currently moving to Fibiel, about an hour away from where I am now! All the Demon King’s army is going there!

“As expected!”

Bang-!

When Leeha hit the table in front of him with the palm of his hand, the gathered people were startled.

“What do you mean? Do you admit that you look stupid?”

“Ay, don’t blow the candle out when someone is happy, Luger. That’s not it!”

Leeha took a magazine out of his bag and inserted it into the Black Bass. Combined with the clicking sound of the magazine, Leeha’s eyes contained power.

“I got a call from Fernand-ssi. Bluebeard is not with them.”

“Then the chance is-”

“Yes. It is only for now. Bailephus-nim! Can you move us all to Fernand-ssi’s location?”

“Of course.”

In that short time when Bailephus nodded, Alexander, Lee Jiwon, Ram Hwajung, Lee Jiwon, and Kidd all finished preparing for the battle by maintaining their weapons.

Leeha was finally able to put his mind at ease as he watched the experts’ stable movements.

“Oh- I’m sorry I was so angry earlier. But you know I did that because I was afraid things would go wrong, right? A-anyway, that incident turned out to be a blessing in the end, so- I’m a bit embarrassed about this now.”

“……It’s okay, oppa. I. Sorry.”

Ram Hwajung slowly walked closer to Leeha and whispered softly.

“I will definitely kill him this time.”

Finally, Leeha gave an order to the gold dragon.

“Please move everyone. Let’s go catch those bastards.”

“Got it.”

Shuuuk-!

On the 3rd floor of the Holy Grill – Gaza City branch that was under construction, all members of the Demon King’s Army subjugation team disappeared.

“Oh! You’re here already?”

“Yes. There’s no reason to delay if we know that Bluebeard isn’t around. Any traces?”

Fernand glanced for a moment at the sight of the crowd that appeared near him.

However, as soon as Leeha’s question was finished, he immediately opened his mouth naturally.

“It’s continuing. They’re an hour away from here, and above all, it’s constantly appearing from the place where the traces were first found.”

“What does that mean?”

“They are moving on foot! Taking advantage of the darkness, secretly heading toward Fibiel! They are moving along the ridge where there are no players or NPCs! However, it’s not like there aren’t any living beings in the vicinity, so I’m sure they will run into monsters, and now I’m looking at the monsters they have dealt with to see what-”

“Okay. Okay.”

Leeha nodded his head interrupting Fernand. Then pulled the bolt of Black Bass.

“Fernand-ssi, please move quickly. You can be a little less careful. What matters now is speed.”

Leeha was certain.

In such an urgent situation, there was no way they would choose to ‘walk’ when they were being chased by Alexander and the other top 10 rankers.

What did their walking mean?

Does that mean traversing areas where monsters spawn?

“Yes? If we do that and get caught by them-”

“No. They won’t notice us. Now that it has been confirmed that the ‘hidden hand’ is no longer their eyes, we don’t have to hold back.”

It meant that the ‘hidden hand’ who was their informant and provided them hideouts was no longer with them.

It was only after hearing Leeha’s explanation that Fernand fully understood.

“Okay, please try to keep up!”

He was only slow because he moved forward while being careful that other users might be around.

The Demon King’s army subjugation team walked through the dark forest according to Fernand’s pace, at a speed where Ram Hwajung almost had to run.

10 minutes, 15 minutes, 20 minutes.

The more nervous a person was the more they talked, but no one opened their mouths.

“Fernand-ssi, how far are they?”

“They are 30 minutes away from us. With our pace, we should be able to catch up to them in about 20 minutes.”

“Okay. Then-”

“It’s fine to follow, but are you planning on attacking them yourself?”

It was Alexander who asked the question and Leeha nodded.

“We will have to catch up first and then see how the situation goes…… for now, that is the plan.”

“They are humans who received the power of the Demon King. I wonder if that bastard, the Demon King’s Fragment, is testing them?”

“Test?”

“Ha Leeha, you said that Bluebeard is not with them, but Bluebeard might be near them like lions trying to raise their cubs to become strong.”

“Ah…”

Leeha understood Alexander’s concern.

Regardless of whether or not this was the case, Alexander’s assumption was quite consistent with Bluebeard’s ‘personality’.

It was evident from the hardened faces of the three people while listening to Alexander.

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger.

Didn’t the three of them already go through something like that?

‘It was like that with Crolang.’

Bluebeard didn’t get up from his seat until the moment his subordinate, crolang, died. Perhaps it was because the three musketeers had killed Croland before he could do anything.

If there was a little delay, it was possible that Bluebeard would have taken some action to save Crolang. 

‘It was only Crolang at that time, but this time, it’s the Demon King’s army. If even one guy is alive and Bluebeard comes out- no, in any case, we have to fight Bluebeard anyway.’

That was the original plan. After wiping out all of Demon King’s army, join forces to kill Bluebeard.

However, it was not easy to deal with the Demon King’s army.

But it wasn’t that other possibilities for Bluebeard were completely out of hand, so their feelings suddenly became complicated.

‘What should I do if he suddenly appears during the fight?’

It was not a situation where they could be relieved that Bluebeard was not around right now.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Damn it, there’s no end to thinking like this!’

Like rock-paper-scissors, a thought twisted once is blocked by a twisted thought twice and a thought twisted twice is blocked by a thought twisted thrice.

When Leeha stopped with an operation plan as he listened to Alexander’s advice, someone walked out from the back of the group.

“What’s important is that we have to kill them all anyway. Whether it’s Bluebeard or the Demon King’s army, all we have to do is wipe them out. Or…… Are you afraid Alexander?”

The barrel of the 『Cobalt Blue Python』 looked bluer in the moonlight.

Luger, who seemed like he would cut off his opponent’s arms if he was asked to play rock-papers-scissors, had eyes as blue as his weapon.

“The only reason you are alive Luger, is because you are part of the subjugation team.”

Alexander didn’t even turn his head toward Luger.

The attitude of the absolute made the surrounding atmosphere tense in an instant, but Luger was not someone who cared about such things.

“Funny man. I don’t think that’s what an idiot who let Faust escape should say. If you’re going to drag the golden lizard behind you and run away with your tail like that, you should give up your ranking.”

“Idiot?”

Luger should be completely ignored. Alexander knew that too.

However, Luger’s words were mixed with an annoying undertone that made it impossible to ignore him.

“……Do you think Alexander and I will fall for your provocation just because we made a mistake once, Luger?”

Bailephus, who was behind Alexander, made a small sigh and stopped Alexander.

“Partner is right. There’s no need to waste energy on someone unworthy like you, Luger.”

Both Alexander and Bailephus wanted to punish Luger, but couldn’t. Even while talking to Luger, their eyes were directed elsewhere.

As Bailephus said, the no. 1 ranker and his dragon, who made a ‘mistake’ once, were reflecting on themselves and trying to control themselves.

“Now, now, stop it. What are you talking about all of a sudden? With the enemy in front of us……. Luger, you should also distinguish where you can and cannot act up. You’re doing something unnecessary at such an important moment.”

“You’re the one who’s doing something unnecessary, Ha Leeha. Like you said, ‘with the enemy right in front of us’. what are you worried about? Did you forget who we have to fight anyway? Since when did 『Bullseye』s bullets start rolling around on the ground?”


“What was that?”

“It is not the time to be cautious. The enemy is already out of sight.”

Warmonger. War mercenary. Luger instinctively knew the timing.

‘……It’s not even a gun that’s aimed at the gauge…’

Leeha wanted to say something, but he held back because it was a reasonable suggestion.

The problem was that the others couldn’t stand it.

“There is nothing wrong with being careful given the possibility that Bluebeard might be present. We’re already catching up to the enemy, and they don’t know we’re following them. After taking enough time to observe, there would be no problem if Bailephus approached them and blocked the space. Being impatient will only ruin the job.”

“Does a loser have any right to speak? Why don’t you keep quiet when you lost to the 8th place in the rankings?”

“Shut up, Luger. I did not lose.”

Alexander’s expression slowly hardened.

Seeing his face, Luger continued with his provocation.

“Ah, that’s right. You did not lose. You lost him. What dragon did you say appeared? While your lizard fought Faust’s lizard, you, who couldn’t do anything without a dragon, must have only been able to suck your fingers, didn’t you?”

It was too much of a provocation.

Seeing that, Leeha tried to say’,Get him! Get him!’, but Leeha managed to stop Lee Jiwon, but he was not able to stop Alexander, the actual party involved.

“……Bailephus.”

“What is it, partner?”

“Please don’t interfere.”

“What do you mean?”

Alexander did not answer Bailephus’ question.

Step, step, he moved out of the forest.


However, everyone could see his action of holding his spear with both hands and his intention to distance himself from the subjugation team.

“W-wait, Alexander-ssi! Now is not-”

“Come on, Luger. Today, I am going to get that cheeky mouth off your face.”

“Kyahaha! A duel without your dragon? Alright, there are a lot of witnesses, so it’s just right.”

“-what are talking about, Luger! ah, ahhh! Can the both of you stop?”

Leeha was flustered, but the fire had already spread.

The anxiety that had existed since the formation of the subjugation team exploded when the enemy was before his eyes.

“It can’t be stopped anymore, hyungnim. I was nervous when I looked at their crazy eyes.”

“……I’m not interested.”

Lee Jiwon giggled, and Ram Hwajung turned her head.

“Hey- should we continue the chase? Even if you fight here, they won’t be able to hear the sound or notice it over there… still, I think we should be careful.”

By the time Fernand finished scratching his head, Alexander and Luger were already facing each other in a clear distance away.

“Ah…… why are things like this…?

“It is your strength and your weakness.”

Leeha grabbed his head and Kidd moved closer to Leeha.

“What?”

“Compared to your meticulousness and skill, your charisma is lacking.”

Leeha laughed out loud while listening to Kidd’s outrageous statement.

“……What. Okay, stop teasing me and help me with Luger.”

“Or better yet. Let’s just take off and go.”


“No, I’m not going to remove- If one of them dies, we’ll have a problem with our plans!”

Watching Kidd calmly observe their confrontation, he felt like doing something.

Whether or not the leader of the subjugation squad was suffering, the two parties, especially Luger, were excited.

His rifle has already been changed into a cannon.

“What should we do? Should we just have a 1-on-1?”

Luger suggested PVP, including literally all his skills and movements. But as Alexander heard him, he shook his head.

“There’s no time. And we can’t be loud.”

“Ha! Then, how should we do it?”

“Hmm….”

Alexander pondered for a moment before lifting his spear. His spear began to glow.

“Let’s do it with one strike.”

“I’m afraid you have a chuunibyou disease, so I won’t fight with you over it. Good. We exchange attacks one at a time, right?”

“Yes.”

It was an offer Luger couldn’t refuse. Now all other things have been removed.

A one-on-one confrontation was unfolded in which only one’s own firepower was used to win.

“Bailephus-nim, can you do something about it?”

“……I will cast a silence spell around them.”

“Cough, no, that’s not the problem. Alexander could be in danger-”

“Hahaha.”

Bailephus burst into laughter before Leeha’s words were finished.

Even when Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh died, Leeha had never seen him laugh like that, so he was a bit suspicious.

“Why? What’s funny?”

“Do you think my partner would lose, Ha Leeha?”

“Ah-…… Alexander-ssi is strong, but if it’s one-on-one, a single strike…. Even Bailephus-nim knows how deadly a single shot from Luger could be. Isn’t he someone who was able to pierce your shield and break your scales?”

However, he had to be careful to not get on Bailephus’ nerves. The gold dragon understood Leeha’s meaning but did not answer.

“That’s right. At that time, I didn’t recognize Luger’s attack.”

“It was from afar…… After all, Luger is not an idiot.”

He wouldn’t have stood in front of a dragon and lifted his cannon.

It would have been a much shorter distance than now, but by Middle Earth standards, it would have hit it at a fairly shocking distance at the time.

Did it mean that if he knew an attack would come, he could have prepared for it with a stronger defensive magic?

‘By the way, isn’t it a story when he is with Bailephus? Right now-’

Isn’t Alexander alone? Isn’t he naked? Carrying a spear?

When Leeha tilted his head in doubt, Alexander and Luger decided on their order.

“You mean I can go first? You can’t resist now!”

“I don’t want to waste my time telling you twice. Use your strongest skill to hit me, Luger.”

“He-hehehe……. Good. I’m already excited at the thought of crushing your confident face. Use any skill to block this. I don’t know what you can do with just your spear-”

Luger increased his distance from Alexander and raised his cannon.

“-From now on, I am number on Alexander. 『Cannon Reinforcement: Flat-fire』

“Luger…… you still don’t know me.”

Leeha and Kidd already knew.

If it was Luger’s used his strongest skill first, it would already be decided.

It ripped open the bodies of a hundred northern trolls.

The strongest skill worthy of being called 『Pierce』.

“That is what I want to say. You bastard don’t really know me! 『Jagdpanzer Kanone』.”

Wiiiiiinh———-.

‘As expected…’

Leeha could feel the extreme energy flowing through Luger’s cannon.

Kidd watching from the side also reacted with his body flinching as if he was Luger’s opponent.

It was a skill so strong that it had 10 seconds of casting time.

The proportion of casting time and damage was a fact that Alexander was also aware of, but he maintained a detached expression while glancing at the muzzle pointed at him.

“I am humanity’s first Dragon Knight. At the same time, however, I am also a dragoon.”

Click-!

Alexander raised his spear.

It was a ‘one hit’ fight, so he must not attack Luger. He shouldn’t even move.

He had to take Luger’s attack head-on.

“There’s no ‘existence’ better than me at handling the spear. Even if it is a god. 『Split Buster』.”

Kiiiing——-!

The energy was being concentrated on their respective weapons.

The tip of Alexander’s spear felt like a laser pointer to Leeha.

‘The mana is continuing to gather at one point. What is he trying to do with that? It is not a defensive skill, it looks like an offensive skill …’

Is it to stab Luger to death? It can’t be! Anyway, he won’t be able to see anything after seeing the conclusion clearly.

‘I don’t think it is a defensive skill…… what is he going to do with an offensive skill?’

Leeha’s guess was relatively accurate.

Alexander’s skill was an ‘offensive skill’. However, there was no law that said that an offensive skill must only attack people.

“Farewell, my friend!”

Finally, after 10 seconds, Luger aimed his cannon at Alexander and pulled the trigger.

Baaaaang———-

———!

Everyone watched the explosion, which was made after a fraction of a second.

Rather, it looked like a still image of it being cut to the surrounding viewers.

An aftershock erupted from the back of 『Cobalt Blue Python』 with an explosion.

What caught everyone’s eyes more than the aftermath was the flames that ran from Luger’s muzzle like a line and shot at Alexander.

Alexander aimed his spear at the flames.

The flame touching the tip of the pear ‘split into two’.

“What!?”

Luger’s strongest skill split in front of Alexander’s skill.

Boom, booom———-!

The divided shell helplessly discharged its explosive energy into the surrounding terrain, and the expression of Alexander, who blocked it, was calm.

“……Crazy…… no way. He split the skill……?”

It was difficult to imagine for Leeha. No, it was possible in theory.

‘Tale could also split Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung’s magic before. However, cutting the visible form of magic with a sword and what just happened are different…’

No matter how fast it was, it was magic that moved less than 100 km per hour.

Tale’s ability to see and react to it was sufficient, but what about Luger’s canon?

‘It was a flat terrain self-propelled cannon! No matter how slow it was, it was not that slow! Even if it is conservative estimation, it is still about the same speed as the speed of sound?!’

Due to the large shell, it cannot achieve the speed of Leeha’s Black Bass, but it should at least be at the speed of sound!

If he assumed that it was 340m per second, which was similar to sound, it would exceed 1,200 km per hour. This means that Luger’s skill is 10 times faster than that of ordinary mages.

Leeha was surprised, and Lee Jiwon bit his lip.

Even Ram Hwajung, who said she was not interested, was so shocked that her eyes became like a rabbit’s.

However, they were all just spectators. Right now, the person who couldn’t accept this situation the most was the person who used the skill, Luger himself.

(To be continued…)
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 Luger couldn’t even open his mouth.

As Lee Jiwon put it, ‘he is not able to say anything’.

“I will warn you, Luger. I learned this skill. On the spot. To use. against you.”

Kiiiiing-

“W-w-w-wait! Wait, Alexander-ssi!”

Leeha walked in front of Luger, who had not yet come to his senses. Leeha was sure what would happen if the skill was used on Luger.

‘Luger would be 1000% dead!’

Originally, he thought that one of them might be in danger of dying.

However, Leeha thought that they both accepted this petty(?) pride fight because they had their countermeasures.

However, after comparing Alexander and Luger’s expressions, Leeha couldn’t stay still.

“What are you doing?”

“Can we stop now? I’m not really siding with Luger-”

“It is Luger who wanted to fight.”

“Right. I know. I know. But……. The result has already been decided. Please, as the leader of the Demon King’s army subjugation team. Please stop here.”

Luger was also strong. So Leeha couldn’t let him die here.

Leeha took out the key he had received from the pope and showed it to Alexander, and Alexander nodded.

“Luger.”

Luger was still speechless. He had come to his senses, but he knew full well that no matter what he said now, it would not work.

Looking over Leeha’s shoulder at Luger, Alexander opened his mouth.

“I just wanted to share my partner’s frustrations. I hate trivial emotional quarrels but…. I will deal with you whenever you want. It is the same -”


Alexander turned to look at one of the spectators.

“-with Lee Jiwon. I won’t avoid you.”

“……This chuunibyo is showing off.”

“What did you say?”

“Nothing?! Did I say anything?”

Lee Jiwon only smirked and couldn’t answer Alexander directly.

It was the first time he saw Alexander’s ‘true abilities’ without Bailephus’ help.

“I am the one who executes justice and the one who defends the good. I am willing to show my strength anytime.”

“Excellent, Alexander.”

“Thank you. Partner.”

Seeing the dignity of 1st ranker, the gold dragon clapped lightly.

“Excuse me- I guess we need to move now that it’s over! Our distance from them has increased a bit!”

“Ah! Yes! Now, everyone, prepare to move again! In order to become as strong as Alexander-ssi, we need to kill the Demon King’s army!”

Leeha encouraged the subjugation team as he clapped.

“Luger you-”

“I get it. I will follow.”

Luger’s dejected appearance brought a little excitement and worry at the same time to Leeha.

Kidd sneaked up behind the two of them.

“If it were my 『Rapid fire』, I would have touched his body before he could even use his splitting skill, such a pity.”

“……Shut up, Kidd.”


Luger could only answer as such, even after hearing Kidd’s cute(?) provocation.

‘Hmm, should I say this is good? He feels like he is floating just now…’

Leeha looked at the subjugation team members.

The one-on-one confrontation between the two was not meaningless at all.

They are now moving as a team, but in Middle Earth, everyone is like an enemy.

As they confirmed Alexander’s absolute skill, Leeha could see that a kind of fire had been kindled in the hearts of all the users present.

‘If it was my attack…… would it work?’

Of course, it was the same case with Leeha.

How big was the gap between him and Alexander, the number one in the ranking?

‘Someday. However, this is not the time.’ Leeha walked toward Fernand and patted the shoulders of the members of the subjugation team once.

“Let’s go!”

Putting weight on Alexader’s advice ‘to be cautious’, the reason he and Luger fought in the first place the subjugation team sped up again. After a while, the distance between Faust and the subjugation team shrank to 1km.

*** ‘Can you see it?’

‘Shh.’

The other members lowered their bodies and only Leeha and Fernand observed the Demon King’s army’s movement.

‘Mana Clairvoyance. Eagle’s Eye, maximum magnification.’

Shhhhing- Leeha’s eyes instantly caught their silhouettes. The irregular internal mana movement must be the chimera.

A large number of humans and one giant around them, a tall human sitting across them, and even the figure of the Lizardia standing in the middle of them.

‘But I think aren’t there more than the traces I found?’

‘It seems the noble demons joined them. I thought they would meet after crossing Fibiel, but the noble demons appear to have moved faster than I expected.’


Most importantly, Leeha noticed another gigantic lump of mana.

He could clearly see where the huge mass of mana was coming from.

‘Crowley’s golem or Faust’s undead hadn’t appeared yet, but there are already so many demon nobles……’

Leeha looked around meticulously and bit his lip tightly.

The number of demon nobles increased every moment, but Leeha did not see the mana of the most important person.

‘Fernand-ssi still hasn’t found the trace of Bluebeard, right?’

‘Yes.’

It was the smae with Fernand. After scouting for a long time in a prone position and counting the number of demon nobles to some extent, the two returned to the subjugation team.

“If we go on like this, we will meet them in 10 minutes. I think this is the time to decide on how we move, so what should we do? The demon nobles are already grouped up with the Demon King’s army. There are about 30 so far. They are scattered all over Fibiel, so it is not their final count. And will increase as time passes.”

Leeha asked the members of the subjugation teams whose eyes were shining black.

The ‘direction’ to be decided was, of course, the problem that Alexander and Luger had an altercation with.

“We need to be careful. We have to follow them for a few days and make sure that Bluebeard is not present.”

“A vote for cautiousness…… what about the others? What do you think, Lee Jiwon-ssi, Ram Hwajung-ssi, and Kidd-ssi?”

Leeha deliberately left Luger out and asked the others. He didn’t have to touch his already scarred pride.

“There are times you need to be quick-witted – that could certainly be true. I don’t know because I haven’t fought, but if Alexander says so, I think it’s clear that Bluebeard could appear at any moment.”

Lee Jiwon readily agreed.

Ram Hwajung only listened and then nodded.

Bluebeard, the monster that Alexander, who just proved himself to be the strongest user in Middle Earth, was wary of.

It was only natural for other rankers who did not know Bluebeard to follow Alexander.

‘Definitely at this point……. the number of demon nobles will increase as time goes on. Monsters that are so powerful that it took the elites of Byulcho to stop dozens of them. There are 30 of them currently, but if it increases to 50 or 100, our team will be insufficient.’

Could it be called bad luck, or good luck?

The demon nobles were quite powerful, but they were still monsters.

Compared to users whose hair was hard to find if they decide to hide, monsters have limited intelligence.

‘In other words, if it’s confirmed that Bluebeard is not present. It would be better to kill Faust and sweep away the remnants of the demon nobles and Bluebeard before all the demon nobles grouped. If Bluebeard didn’t show up, that would be great.’

It was Bluebeard who caught Leeha’s thoughts to the end.

Since they could only be certain of a few pieces of information, it was only natural for Leeha to be cautious.

“I understand. Then, according to your opinion, we will follow them until Bluebeard’s presence is confirmed-”

Hwaaaaa—-!

“Uh?!”

It was then that a turquoise light began to shine in the middle of the subjugation team members.

Irira.

“Hmm?”

“Hmm? Teleport, and with this aura-”

When the users covered their eyes because of the light, Bailephus nodded.

Dragons recognize other dragons.

“Blaugrunn.”

『Kyuuu, kyukyukyu.』

The bronze dragon hatchling greeted Bailephus as soon as he appeared in front of Leeha.

“You came as well.”

With Bahamut spreading the news, all metal dragons already knew that Leeha revived Blaugrunn.

The dragon who was the most overjoyed upon hearing this was Bailephus, and it was the reason why he looked at Leeha with favorability even more.

『Kyu. Kyu, kyukyu!』

Blaugrunn said(?) something to Bailephus and looked at Leeha.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, it’s dangerous, so please wait at your lair-”

『Kyuu! Kyu, kyukyukyu!』

“-what’s the matter again?”

Blaugrunn sat on Leeha’s shoulder

. He patted Leeha’s cheeks repeatedly with his wings, he pointed his small wings somewhere.

“What’s over there?”

『Kyu! Kyukyukyu!』

“Huh?”

『Kyuu! Kyuk!』

“E-Excuse me, Bailephus-nim, perhaps you can interpret-” As Leeha took his eyes off the annoying Blaugrunn and looked at Bailephus, an idea crossed his head.

“-……no, wait. No way?”

Leeha caught the dragon on his shoulder and brought it to his face.

“Are you talking about that now?”

『Kyuuuung!』

Blaugrunn nodded. Ram Hwajung looked at Leeha with her eyes wide open.

“What’s the matter? Oppa?”

“……Prepare for battle. Everyone, prepare for battle. Bailephus-nim! Can you immediately block space, communication, and movement?”

“Huh?”

“Bluebeard is not here! He is not hiding nearby and he won’t ambush us. This is our chance!”

Leeha quickly shouted as he picked up his Black Bass that he had tied behind his back while crawling.

Blaugrunn had already proved once in Marching Plains when he went to meet Minis’ delegations.

That incomprehensible detection ability shone now.

“Everyone move as soon as you are ready! Each enemy is-”

Grrrr- Kyahi—— Cha——

Uuuurk- Grrrk, Garyu

Faust was able to put his mind at ease as he watched the demon nobles gradually gather.

‘If we have this much…… going for the gold dragon is worth a try. I have already confirmed how much the undead dragon can deal with that damned gold dragon. The problem is Alexander.’

However, he was worried about Alexander’s immeasurable power.

Even the chimeras and Faust’s undead couldn’t stop it.

Even if he distributed 30-some nobles and the dragon and concentrated on the rest, would he be able to block his ‘charge’?

“Uwaaah! What is this?! If there was a monster like this, you should have called me first! The ogres have wings? How did you synthesize this? Is it a chimera? No, chimeras are artificially synthesized, so there’s no way it would come out neatly like this! Mutation? Simple mutation? If you graft an ogre and harpy, will it come out like this? How did you make this-”

“……I’m thinking about something important, so don’t distract me.”

Faust sighed, but Crowley wouldn’t keep his mouth shut.

“Good! Huhihihit! Good! Because of my achievement as an agent of the Demon King’s army, I can’t even use the city’s warp gate, and I can’t even use the crystal ball or teleport scroll because I am afraid of other people’s eyes. It was really annoying, but seeing those gives me strength! Kyahahahat, aren’t the others coming? Those warlocks who were originally your subordinates.”

He was also one of the famous outsiders.

He had the ability to stealthily turn and stab the target.

Faust, who had told Crowley to shut up, had no choice but to shut up.

It was because he did not disclose the fact that a user who had become a soldier of the Demon King’s army, becomes human again when they die, even receiving a huge penalty, and that Faust’s own power was not enough to bring that user back to the Demon King’s army.

“Kyahahaha. They will not come. No, they cannot be contacted. Isn’t that right, snakehead?”

Igor opened his mouth sarcastically. There was a way to know even if Faust did not speak.

In the case of Igor, a member of Czar who had been killed by Leeha had already informed him of the fact from the outside.

In other words, even if the 3rd in the rankine, the Berserker, spoke harshly and behaved rudely, Faust, the ‘leader’ of the Demon King’s army, can’t say anything.

‘Fucking……. Even that ignorant bear knows. But I can’t kick him out, or say anything…’

If I did, they would be completely out of here.

Now that a lot of chimeras have died, what if Igor and Czar, who currently occupy a large part of the current Demon King’s army, went missing?

Igor: Inject more power of the Demon King into me and the Czar members.

Leeha: What?

(To be continued…)
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 Igor: Even that idiot alchemist to be your strength, don’t you? Kekek, before I tell that bastard the truth… infuse us with more Demon King’s power that you cherish. Or else, I will talk.

Faust: It’s impossible right now-

Igor: If you don’t give us more power within 10 minutes, me and Czar will leave.

‘Damn it!…… Damn it! Damn it! Damn it!!’

They knew that Alexander and other rankers were chasing them.

Faust was in a situation where his subordinates caught his weakness while being the leader.

The power of the Demon King’s army he received from Bluebeard was limited.

Distributing and controlling it in an appropriate amount to each member of the army was also Faust’s authority,

 but he had already exhausted all of his strength.

What remained was all poured into the undead red dragon to fight against Alexander and Bailephus for a while.

‘If that happens… Damn it…….’ Faust must strengthen Igor by consuming his strength!

Faust thought about how it had come to be like this.

‘Chiyou that bitch betrayed- no, no, no. It’s not because of Chiyou.’

Just because she didn’t provide them a hideout or preempt information? That was not it.

The chimeras made the NPC knights of Minis immobilized.

It was said to be weak against fire, but the skin of a chimera couldn’t even be bune by most low-level mages.

What about Faust’s undead?

If he applied the Dark Promotion skill, it would boast comparable strength.

What if the demon nobles were included?

It meant that the power of the army itself was still strong!


However, why was he unable to exert his full strength despite leading such a powerful army?

It was because someone had eliminated his allies who would neutralize the spirits of enemies alongside him.

‘……Ha Leeha……. It all started from Marching Plains. I should have finished it in Gaza City.’

Grrrt, the Lizardia, who was noticeable even at night, gnashed his teeth.

‘I will definitely get my revenge someday-’

Shwaaak…….

As Faust thought of his revenge for Leeha, colorful dome-shaped mana began to spread over their heads.

『The abnormal status ‘Mana Block’ has been applied.』

『You cannot go beyond the restricted area for 30 minutes.』

(If you have a higher ability than the caster, the barrier can be broken.)

『The abnormal status ‘Space Shackles’ has been applied.』

『All space movements within the range are restricted for 15 minutes.』

『The abnormal status ‘Communication Interference’ has been applied.』

『All chats, including whispers and group chats, are prohibited for 15 minutes.』

“What the heck?!”

“……Damn it. How did they know? Is there anyone who didn’t use anti-marking?”

Faust hurriedly turned toward Igor, Czar, and Crowley, but everyone shook their heads.

They had no way of knowing that the pursuit of the pioneering king was in a different league from low-level skills such as marking.

Most importantly, it didn’t matter whether they used anti-marking or not. Space had already been locked, communication cut off, and movement had been restricted.

Step, step, step.


They spotted a group of people coming toward them in the dark.

“Pay the price for betraying humanity. Faust. Igor. And Crowley.”

The Demon King’s army subjugation team, led by Alexander, appeared in front of them.

“Alexander…… Who are you to do that? It’s going to be difficult to keep the ranking.”

“Chanchachan-! Do you admit that? The 2nd in the ranking is also here!”

In response to Faust’s question, Lee Jiwon stuck his head out behind Alexander

.

“Kyahahaha, did you come back because you want to find out, Lee Jiwon? This time, I will separate your flesh from your bones.”

The 3rd in the ranking responded to the teasing. This was the first time in the history of Middle Earth that the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd in the ranking were gathered in one place.

“Did Ram Hwajung come?! Uhi, hihit! Did she miss her oppa? This time, I-”

Bababaaaang—-!

With a sudden series of shots, Crowley’s reagents were destroyed.

Uwak?! What? Gun?”

“Sexual harassment of minors is a felony.”

Heuk, Kidd walked in front of Ram Hwajung, blowing the smoke from his revolver.

Faust and Alexander, the representatives of each group, stared at each other and surveyed their surroundings at the same time.

They were checking if others could be utilized, where they were, and how they would attack.

And in that regard, the Demon King’s army subjugation team had an overwhelming advantage.

Leeha: 150m there’s a vacant lot on the left. Ram Hwajung-ssi and Kidd, pull Crowley that way. If possible, it would be nice if you could bring a few nobles with you.

Ram Hwajung: Understood, oppa.


Kidd: Are you proud that you’re in a comfortable place alone?

Leeha: Lee Jiwon and Luger, make Igor busy. As I said before, there’s a dense forest on the right side, so please move as planned and clear the center battlefield! Luger! Just because you’re feeling down doesn’t mean you can’t 『Pierce』 the trees, right?

Leeha: Did you see that big picture?

Luger: Shut up, Ha Leeha. I can pierce your face from here too.

Leeha: And Alexander-ssi and Bailephus-nim please take care of Faust in the center. Since we don’t have enough energy to deal with the Chimeras, Bailephus-nim, please deal with them using your breath.

Luger: No problem.

Leeha, who already knew everything about the enemies’ information, observed the situation on all the battlefields from 800m away.

Leeha: The estimated operation time is 13 minutes, let’s handle everything within that time and complete the quest neatly. I am here as a backup, as long as you don’t leave the battlefield mentioned, I can support all three battlefields-

Click-!

Leeha pulled the bolt and loaded one shot. He once again checked the battlefield.

Leeha: Now- I am going to shoot. All teams ready, start the operation!

At the same time as Leeha’s group whisper, paaaat-! The members of the subjugation team facing the Demon King’s army began to separate.

The battlefield was within Leeha’s hands.

“Ice spear.”

“Kyahahaha! No you won’t! Noguri has no time limit!”

The ice spear, which had been shot out, came to a halt in front of Crowley.

It wasn’t a skill that stopped the magic.

It was Crowley’s new ice golem, which he had made during the last battle, became invisible and stood in front of him.

The ice golem absorbed the ice spear with the unpleasant ppudududuk sound.

“Tsk.”

Hwiiiik-!

When Ram Hwajung ran to the left, Crowley chased after her, thinking she was running away.

“Uhah, uhahaha! Where are you going?! Didn’t you come here to play with your oppa? Do you want me to kiss you in the clearing?”

Haa, haa-!

Ram Hwajung ran ahead, Crowley chased after her, and Kidd with his wide-brimmed hat followed after them.

It wasn’t long before the three of them reached the empty lot on the left.

“I will kill you this time.”

Ram Hwajung was aware of the ice golem that Crowley created.

She just shot a weak magic to bring it out according to Leeha’s instructions.

When she reached the clearing, her eyes began to burn.

“Me? You can’t even handle my ice golem anymore, Ram Hwajung! After freezing those pretty arms and legs-”

“Shh. You there……. Should I repeat what I said earlier? Sexual harassment of minors is a felony, Crowley.”

It was Kidd who interrupted Crowley, who was fiddling with the buckle on his waist while looking Ram Hwajung.

Crowley was not at all taken aback when he saw Kidd, who broke his reagent bottles.

“Are you pretending to be righteous? Kuhahaha! You’re a man, aren’t you? It’s only natural to be excited when you see a pretty young woman! Is it not? What kind of crime is it? You’re not even a cop?!”

“I am not a cop. And I said it’s a felony, but in Texas, the police don’t punish sex crimes against minors. Do you know why?”

Kidd moved with light steps and stood in front of Ram Hwajung.

Even without using any skills, the cold convective current flowing by Ram Hwajung’ was enough to make the hem of Kidd’s coat flutter.

They gave off the vibe of an outlaw crossing the desert and the girl he protects.

“What nonsense are you talking about? How can I know that?! I’m just saying that it’s natural for a healthy adult man to like a young and fresh woman-”

“Because vigilantes kill them before the police arrive.”

Flutter…… Flutter…….

A dark red coat fluttered beside blue hair.

When the hem of Kidd’s coat fluttered for the third time, two revolvers were already in Kidd’s hands.

“Let’s go.”

“I will kill you, you crazy pervert. 『Ice Blast』.”

Crowley, feeling the powerful mana pouring over the two of them, hurriedly took out all the remaining reagent bottles and threw them around.

“Uwooook?! This, rise, nudugi! And wood golems!”

The first pair, Ram Hwajung, and Kidd, started their battles with Crowley.

Crowley didn’t follow Ram Hwajung and Kidd because he was dumb.

It was because he could hide his large golem in the medium-wide clearing, and this very clearing was the place where he was currently hiding his huge golem…

With the shaking of the ground, a 14m tall giant golem stood up, and artificial ents(wood golems) began to be created from the trees, scattered all over the place, that was that with reagent bottles.

“Is that all?”

Roughly counting, the number of wood golems created per reagent bottles was about 10 or so.

More than 45 golems were created in an instant, but it didn’t work in front of Kidd’s quickfire.

It was because the cores in the center of the golems that were not completely created were clearly exposed.

bababang——

“This-”

babababang—– pasasak…….

“-number of cores-”

bababang—- pasak, pasasak-!

“- won’t be able -”

babababang——! Hooook.

“-to make golems.”

His quickdraw and panning, alternating four revolvers, spewed fire.

Normally, he would have only been able to make 24 shots, but the number of golems Kidd destroyed was over 40.

“W-what?! What kind of attack is so fast-”

“……I wouldn’t use this normally, but since they are not here, I will show you.”

What was in Kidd’s hands while having a slight smile was a newly made trump item.

Since Leeha and Luger were not present, he proudly displayed a speed loader, with 6 bullets pre-loaded.

Since he can reload at least three times faster than inserting one round into the cylinder, he could shoot more than 24 rounds in a short amount of time!

“Damn it, but there’s still a lot of golems! Nudugi-”

“Are you talking about that scrap golem?”

Kidd flicked a revolver and pointed at the tattered golem.

The 14m giant golem’s entire upper body was already frozen before it could show its power.

There was no way Ram Hwajung would just play around.

“Eeek- That damned bitch again! Right, I have plenty of thawing potion!”

Crowley hurriedly tossed vials of yellow liquid. Kidd couldn’t hold back his laughter at the sight.

Three small reagent bottles flew, Kidd fired three bullets in succession, not aiming straight, but holding a revolver on his waist.

The gunfire that followed as if it were a single shot broke the three reagents.

“……You hit the three bottles at the same time? Without skill casting time-”

“It is not a skill. No, in a sense, it is a skill. Have you heard of ‘Get off three shot’.”

Kidd only shrugged lightly, but it was a deadly gesture for Crowley.

More than 80% of the wood golems that would have served as shields were destroyed before they were even made, and the tattered golem, which was close to a secret weapon, froze once more.

“Oh, ice golem! Ice golem! Freeze those arrogant bastards!”

Shwaaaak…….

The ice golem, which had been transparent, showed itself again.

Since it was a golem filled with Ram Hwajung’s mana, each of its attacks had a freezing effect.

“Its final outburst might become unsightly to anyone.”

“I know.”

Kidd shook his head and Ram Hwajung nodded while casting.

When the blue grains of light were almost all inside her body, Ram Hwajung touched Kidd’s forearm.

Crack.

“Hmm?”

“That. Break it down.”

Ram Hwajung shook her blue hair and chin toward Crowley.

Distinct features gathered on her small face, it had a cold atmosphere that harmonized with its formative beauty.

However, Kidd seemed to laugh at the contrast of her childish appearance.

(To be continued…)
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 “If it’s the lady’s request, as you wish.”

Hwiririk, it only took 0.4 seconds for Kidd to finish loading and open fire by using the speed loader again.

Six bullets tore through the ice golem’s core with precision, shattering its weakness.

The moment the ice golem fell to the ground with a crash, Ram Hwajung opened her mouth.

『Absolute Zero』.”

Gadududuk—–

“uh, ugh?! My- hand! my feet-”

Ram Hwajung cast a single target attack magic.

It didn’t just kill the target with damage, it also completely froze the target’s body.

The cold air started from Crowley’s fingertips and toes, moved through his arms and legs in an instant, and froze his lower body, upper body, and even his head until he was completely frozen.

Looking at the completely frozen Crowley, Ram Hwajung gestured.

“Bye-bye, pervert.”

Hearing the girl’s words and actions, Kidd knew exactly what he had to do.

In a situation where neither quickdraw nor panning was necessary, he lightly lifted the revolver.

Bababang….!

The heavy gunfire of the light revolver rang through the open space for a long time.

Broken pieces of ice scattered on the ground and eventually turned gray.

***

“Kuhahaha! Where did you find the guts to appear in front of me again? Did Alexander offer to help you?!”

“Wow, what a bluff. Isn’t it embarrassing to be the 3rd in the ranking for so long?”


Lee Jiwon looked at Igor with a ridiculing expression. The sight of him not even taking out his sword displeased the Czar guild members.

“……You talk good for a guy who ran away earlier! I’ll rip your arms off so you won’t even be able to use scroll this time!”

Paaat-!

At the same time as Igor stepped forward, Czar’s members also rushed in.

Lee Jiwon started quickly running toward the right, as Leeha had instructed.

Although they were members of Czar and the Demon King’s army, who were strengthened by the power of the berserker that was 3rd in the ranking, Lee Jiwon’s running speed was by no means slow.

No, on the contrary, it could be seen that he was much faster.

“I watched Ram Hwajung and practiced, but it wasn’t easy.”

“What bullshi-”

“Chain Lightning!”

He was casting while running at a fast speed.

Bzzzzt——–!

The lightning bolt extended from Lee Jiwon’s hand and hit Igor’s sword directly.

“Kyaaat!”

“Wow, is that scream real? It’s my first time seeing someone cry out ‘Kyaat’ when in pain. Are you going to post it on YTube?”

“You impudent bastard——!” It wasn’t for magic damage. It only aimed to reduce the movement speed of Igor and Czar’s members by inflicting slight damage.

As the angry Igor and Czar rushed at him like bears, Lee Jiwon slowly widened their distance again.

They came close but it wasn’t enough to be in their attack range.

Like walking on a tightrope, the more they moved with a tight gap between them, the more they entered the dense forest.

“What did you, a magic swordsman, come here to do? Kyahhaha, were you too busy running away that you forgot to choose a battlefield that gave you an advantage?”


“When did I say I was going to play?”

It had only been less than a minute since they started.

Of course, the strategic maneuver had overwhelming destructive power.

“The 2nd ranker is running away after all that talk! Today, I will-”

“That would be impossible. No~thing~”

Paaat-!

Lee Jiwon leaped into the air after exclaiming some unknown word. Mana grains were already gathering in his body.

“Fly!”

Shwii……!

Igor and Czar put on absurd expressions as they watched him fly into the air which was not possible with just a single leap.

“In the air? What can you do there-” Papat——-!

“-hmm?”

In an instant, Igor and Czar felt a shiver in the air.

The sound itself was silent, but the intensity of the vibration was by no means weak. Along with that trembling, what was heard was the unpleasant gurgling and clattering noises!

“What are you talking about?”

“Find out where that sound is coming from! Protect Igor-nim!”

While the Czar members were frantically moving, Lee Jiwon was smiling in the air with his arms crossed.

“I told you before. What I would do? I will do nothing.”

“Then what are you doing there-”

Bang- bang- babang-


“Come.”

“-What?!”

Paaaaak……. Breaking down all the trunks of the tall trees, something jumped out in the middle of Igor and Czar’s formation.

It was an oval-shaped object with a pointed tip, which was burning red.

Igor instinctively knew that it was dangerous.

He tried to cast a skill quickly, but Luger’s shell exploded faster.

“Blood Shield-”

Baaaaaang————

His ‘armor-piercing shell’, which has explosive power as well as penetrating power, exploded in the middle of Igor and Czar’s formation.

“Waah! The explosion is so great! This is a jackpot!” Lee Jiwon, who avoided the explosion in the air, was already holding his black sword.

It was obvious what kind of magic the black mana going into the 2nd in the ranking’s body would soon lead to.

“Sol Blaze! Corona Jet!”

Lee Jiwon, the 2nd in the ranking, rushed into the battlefield, where the smoke of the flames hadn’t even disappeared yet.

Leeha: Lee Jiwon-ssi, start moving and lead them to the target point. By the way, Luger, you can shoot properly, right?

Luger: If you’re curious, do you want to try with your face first?

Leeha: You only pretend to be strong to me! You can’t even do anything against Alexander-

Luger: Shut up, if you say one more word, I will really shoot you.

Leeha: D-don’t turn your muzzle carelessly! You should focus on the battlefield!

Leeha shouted quickly when Luger’s muzzle turned toward him.

Luger changed his aim again, but it seemed like he was still glaring at Leeha.

Leeha: Oh? Measure the angle accurately. Luger will be coming from 082 degrees where you are right now.

Lee Jiwon: I know.

Leeha: Do you know where the 000-degree direction is?

Lee Jiwon: Here is the 000 degrees…… here is the 082 degrees. Isn’t it that I’m going to drag them to 600 meters from here?

Leeha turned his head, looking at the muzzle of the 『Cobalt Blue Python』.

Even if he did something unnecessary, even if he was beaten(?) by Alexander and got depressed, it didn’t mean that Luger’s skill diminished.

Luger: Tsk, I know. But Luger, what do you do in real life? Are you a soldier? You look pretty good with your attitude and your angle of defense. It’s not easy to get used to it.

Luger: ……You don’t need to know. And I am no longer a soldier.

Leeha smiled when he heard Luger’s answer.

Leeha: Still, judging from the fact that you answer quite docilely, it seems people only grow when they go through pain.

Luger: I told you to shut up.

Leeha: Haha, okay! Let’s focus now then. The target will be reached in 11 seconds! The only place in the area where the target point and firing pad were flat! There were a lot of obstacles! There were almost 50 trees….

Luger: No problem.

Leeha: Well, if Luger said it was impossible in the first place, I wouldn’t have come up with this plan.

It was a strategy Leeha thought after hearing Lee Jiwon’s skirmish with Igor and listening to Fernand’s advice on the terrain.

Luger: I will say…. Your plan is good-

Leeha: What?

Luger: No. Nothing. The time?

It was no exaggeration to say that Lee Jiwon and Luger only grew stronger through solo play.

Their participation in team play was surprising to others, and it was unimaginable that the two of them worked together and were directed by someone else.

Leeha: Oh- wait..

Leeha turned over the Black Bass bass and calculated the speed of Igor chasing Lee Jiwon.

Ha Leeha did not quite understand what Luger was trying to say, and the meaning of Lee Jiwon’s agreeing to the plan.

It meant that two wolves with strong pride who insisted on playing solo had acknowledged someone.

Leeha: About 5 minutes! I also notified Lee Jiwon. Get ready-

Luger: Interesting.

Leeha: What? Focus! 3, 2, 1-

“Haha. Ha Leeha….. He’s an interesting guy.”

Luger laughed.

What kind of power will a bullet bring from 600m away?

Shooting at targets that were not visible, relying only on the information from others?

It was a surprise even to Luger himself that he could make a play like this.

『Panzer Shrek』.”

In a situation where the skill had been cast in advance according to Leeha’s countdown, all he did was lightly pull the trigger.

Baaaaang———-!

The bullet, whose warhead glowed red, flew along the expected trajectory, showing of its kinetic energy without hesitation.

In the forest, where trees thicker than a person’s waist were lined up, it would be the worst shooting location for Leeha, but it didn’t bother Luger at all.

Luger enjoyed the distant sound of the armor-piercing shell. It seemed as if Lee Jiwon’s laughter could be heard carried by the wind.

“Summon undead, dark promotion!”

Puaaaak, puaak-!

Faust immediately summoned and promoted his troops.

Even as they were getting out of the ground, the skeletons and zombies with cold bodies immediately turned into high-end undead monsters equipped with all sorts of equipment.

“You know better than anyone that this can’t stop me.”

“……I know. I know. I know very well that the one wearing that golden armor is the gold dragon!”

Huuuut…….

Dark red mana began to gather into Faust’s body.

“Alexander.”

“Uh.”

Phew.

And Bailephus and Alexander just watched.

They had already predicted which skill Faust would use, but there was no reason to stop it.

The reason Bailephus cooperated in the pursuit was not only to get rid of Bluebeard but also to lead Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh to his true rest.

“Are you ignoring that much, kuhuhuhu! You’re really the number one in the rankings! Even if you have the ancient gold dragon-”

Hwaaaat-!

“-I am also in the top 10! I am 8th in the rankings, Bluebeard Le’s only servant, necromancer Faust! 『Resurrection Catacombs: Reverse』!”

Dark aura began to spread beneath the white Lizardia’s feet. A reversed version of the Resurrection Catacombs skill that rips off the target’s corpse!

After Necromancer’s main specialty of turning the body of the target into undead and putting it back into the world was realized, a huge lump of darkness popped out from under his feet.

Kuwaaak——-!

A nimble body shot into the sky, six wings containing demonic power that made the body even more grotesque!

The undead dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, who was unbalanced because half of its neck had been cut off and had no face, finally reappeared.

Leeha: Whoah, Alexander-ssi? Bailephus-nim? It’s that one, right? It appears that the number of wings is a bit different, but- that’s really Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh….

Bailephus: I’m sorry, Ha Leeha. Don’t worry, I will finish it.

Bailephus politely sent a whisper to Leeha.

This was because he did not forget that he almost ruined the important quest that the Pope had made in connection to Bluebeard.

Because it was only to help ‘the member of the clan rest’.

Even though Leeha heard the extremely selfish reason, he couldn’t help but feel grateful to Leeha, the Pope’s deputy, who allowed it and thought of the plan.

Leeha: I will not interfere with the dragons. Bailephus-nim, please.

Bailephus: Okay.

Leeha wanted to shoot Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh right from the start, but he couldn’t because of concerns that his position would be exposed.

He literally had no choice but to leave everything to Bailephus.

Hwaaaak-!

The figure of a knight wearing golden armor instantly turned into a huge god dragon.

『Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh! My arrogant rival, pitiful comrade-in-arms! I will lead you to your true rest!』

『———-!』

With no vocal cord or dragon heart, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh couldn’t say anything.

Just as Faust commanded, they quickly rushed toward the gold dragon.

“If you release the red dragon’s undead anger now, I will consider your treatment.”

“You’re making me laugh. Do you think you could be anything if you did a good charge at that time? I am different from last time.”

Faust’s pure white tail hit the ground.

(To be continued…)
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 Boom, boom, boom, boom…….

With the sound of heavy footsteps, figures began to appear one by one from the darkness behind him.

“There are a few chimeras, but this time we won’t be able to touch them. Ah! Even dragons are like that. Even if it’s a half-bodied dragon without a heart, wouldn’t it be worth it to hunt a gold dragon if I have these guys to support it?”

“Hmm?”

“Hwiik-!”

As Faust whistled, several big guys behind him began to levitate into the air.

“Go, winged ogres! Help the undead dragon kill the gold dragon!”

Responding to the lizardia’s words, the winged ogres roared and flew toward Bailephus.

“Now, shall we dance? I will kill you at all cost, Alexander.”

“That sounds arrogant.”

There were four-armed trolls, horned cyclops, and more.

The large monsters that the new generation of the Three Musketeers had struggled to deal with were snorting behind Faust.

“Let’s check if it’s arrogance or not. Let’s go.”

Kiyeeeeeeek

All the Demon King’s monsters led by Faust started running toward Alexander.

“Hmmm.”

Alexander’s spear stretched out with a glow.

Boom, boom, boom-! Flash!

The large monsters pulled out nearby trees to use as their weapons, and the horned cyclops tried to catch Alexander by using blink.

Despite being surrounded by over 30 demon noble monsters in a matter of seconds, Alexander did not panic.


“Haha! Great! It shoots lightning from-”

Kurarararat——!

“-Huh?”

Faust clapped! At the moment of the strike, the horned cyclops, who had tried to grab Alexander from behind, grabbed its head.

“What…… what? Why are you doing that! Attack! Even Alexander wouldn’t be able to do much with just one magic shot-”

Bzzzt—! Nugyak——!

Alexander walked, looking only at Faust.

His spear was shining, but he didn’t hold it properly, let alone use a skill.

“-what- how- why?”

However, with each step the emperor took, the demon nobles surrounding him fell one by one.

When the cyclops wrapped its head around its arms, its horn was already gone.

Before the cyclops, who had lost its horn, could attack, its head had already exploded.

The four-armed ogre picked up a whole tree, but in less than three seconds all four of its arms were cut off.

Even the group of trolls that had two upper bodies died before they could even bare their teeth.

Booooom—–!

“uwaa?! wi-winged-ogres…”

When Faust looked sideways in surprise, the winged ogres crashed to the ground with their wings ripped off and heads crushed.

“What- what did you do?!”

Faust could not accurately perceive the situation.

The sound of Bailephus and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s magic exploding from the sky, and the intermittent sound of Crowley and Igor’s battles coming from both sides disturbed his mind.


But where? There was no particular noise or effect on the battlefield where he was standing!

Alexander didn’t even attack, so why do large monsters keep dying?

Kuwoooo, kuok! Neuk!

“I didn’t do anything, demon King’s agent.”

“T-then! Then why are they dying! Even if you have a special buff or power for being the 1st in the ranking, this is- this is ridiculous! This is imbalance! This game! I- I even got the hall of fame achievement for Demon King’s Agent! I, I am even the first!”

Faust backed away with a yelp. More than half of the more than 30 demon nobles who showed up proudly.

That’s not the end.

Each time Alexander took a step…….

Faust looked at Alexander with a pained expression worse than when his HP is reduced.

“I have a special buff. I also have a power that only I have. However, I didn’t do anything, demon King’s agent.”

“Don’t say crazy things! You fucking bastard! I still have the chimeras. Hu, huhu, I still have a lot of undead! Drauf los! Geh Monster!”

Kadududuk, Karararak- grrrrrr…. Along with Faust’s passionate hand movements, the monsters began rushing toward Alexander.

Alexander holding the shining spear finally moved.

“Begone, children of darkness. Brandish.”

Alexander used ‘swing’, a beginner skill that he once used against Pei Wu.

It was one of the basic skills that users who had jobs related to handling spears learned. It was to the extent that it floated around the internet that if swords had the bash skill, spears had the swing.

However, Alexander’s swing was not an ordinary one.

He swung horizontally 360 degrees relative to his body.

As his skill proficiency reached its peak, the handle of the spear drew a huge circle, and all the undead soldiers and dullahans rushing at him were thrown away.

“……That……


Grr- Grrrrr-!

“Given that you are using monsters prohibited by the Common Continental Convention. I will not leave even a trace of you. 50 consecutive thrusts.”

Faust thought of a ‘machine gun’ when he saw Alexander holding his spear handle under his armpit. However, he was clearly human.

But the 50 consecutive spear thrusts fired after that, and the attack that even the movement of the blade and hilt were not properly visible, were literally close to machine guns.

“What.”.

The chimeras were cut into tiny pieces to the extent that it would be more appropriate to describe them as being ground up while standing.

Faust was stunned when he saw the artificially synthesized monsters, which had been broken into smaller pieces and even lost their poisonous acid.

“50 consecutive thrusts. 50 consecutive trusts.”

Alexander continued to use the skill repeatedly.

His shoulder moved like a machine with a dududu sound, and every time he thrust his spear, one chimera after another got minced finely

.

“I can’t do this! This is nonsense! Demon nobles-”

Faust looked around as he watched the monsters protecting him die without rest.

At that point, there were no demon nobles left.

Not to mention hitting Alexander with an effective blow, Faust couldn’t even get more than two steps closer to him.

All the monsters that harassed Fibiel’s minor cities and castles died.

“This is nonsense! It can’t be- hmm?”

It was then that a bright white light came in from the far end of Faust’s astonished vision, on a terrain that could be called a small high ground.

Although there was no proof, the necromancer, 8th in the ranking, was able to intuitively recognize it.

Why was Alexander, who did not often intervene in the affairs of users, here?

He said that there was a buff for the 1st in the ranking, but as Alexander said, ‘he did not do anything’, why did the demon nobles die?

He shouldn’t have touched it in the first place.

He should have ignored Gaza City.

It was that damned bastard!

“–Ha Leeha!”

Faust regretted it now, but it was all over.

『You have leveled up.』

Leeha: phew, the wrap-up is just right. The demon nobles are done. Alexander-ssi, are you okay?

Alexander: I’m fine.

Leeha: How about Bailephus-nim? Do you need help in dealing with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh?

Bailephus: You only need to deal with the winged ogres. As long as power is not continuously flowing in from the Demon King’s Fragment, a guy without a heart won’t be able to defeat me!

The red dragon, who touched the taboo that the chromatic dragons wanted but had no choice to avoid, tried to achieve his dream even by sacrificing everything, but in the end he himself became the undead.

Kwakwakwakwa——!

Magic flashed and made noise in the sky above Faust.

“Kneel, Faust.”

The sound was from a cannon.

After arranging all the monsters, Alexander put a spear on Faust’s neck.

The lizardia necromancer, who had been trampled on in every aspect using all-out war and strategic warfare, had no will to resist.

Shwaaa-!

At that moment, a bright light emanated from Alexander’s side.

What appeared in place of the light had disappeared was a figure of a man holding a rifle, long and black as darkness.

“It’s been a while, Faust?”

Leeha pulled the bolt, showing his white teeth. Click-!

“You…… did you coax Alexander?”

“It’s a bit of an understatement to say that I coaxed him. It’s called people’s heart uniting to enforce justice.”

“……That’s not even funny. Did that crazy bitch cling to you to bring justice? It can’t be.”

“Huh? What are you talking about? Who is the crazy bitch? Who else is a Demon King’s agent?”

“Pwe! Dirty bitch.”

Faust spat at Leeha.

The lizardia’s saliva dripped on the coat Drake gave to Leeha, but he did not look like he felt bad.

On the contrary, he felt that he just received an important keyword as a reward for getting spat at.

『Subjugation of the Demon King’s army』

Content: The death of the Demon King’s army and the Demon King’s agents currently in the continent(78%)

Reward : ?

Condition for Failure: The resurrection of other Fragments of the Demon King other than Bluebeard, death of all the subjugation team members.

Ignoring Faust’s words, Leeha opened his quest window.

Actually, he didn’t even have to meet Faust like this. As he did with Crowley and Igor, he could have just killed Faust without seeing his face.

Even so, the reason Leeha came all the way here was because of the quest completion.

‘A…… bitch? Is there someone else? I’ve never heard of a female player.’

However, he didn’t know.

The fact that Igor was there was something that Leeha hadn’t figured out until Gaza City was destroyed.

“Faust. Who else is the remaining user in the Demon King’s agent?”

“What? Who else? Hahaha! Did you come without knowing that? You must have heard everything from her anyway! She even told you the location of that shitty hideout!”

“Answer Ha Leeha’s question, Faust.”

Alexander thrust his spear into Faust’s neck even harder.

With just a light movement, red blood began to flow from the white lizardia’s neck.

Leeha thought as he watched the dripping blood and Faust’s emotional attitude.

‘He said ‘bitch’ again. Who is it? Not a a part of the Demon King’s army. If he’s talking about the hide out-’

The 『Hidden Hand』.

Does that mean that the identity of the user who played blindfolded chess with Leeha from the days of the national war until now was a ‘woman’?

‘To that extent…… is he saying that there’s a great female schemer? Who the hell- Ram Hwayeon? No, that’s absurd. She’s on the level of Ram Hwayeon, maybe even more…? An NPC? Madam Joo of the Holy Grill is also a woman. No. It is reasonable to say that there is no possibility that Madam Ju will now go on a rope between the Demon King and me. What the hell happened?’

It didn’t feel right. Leeha assumed everything he could think of, even the worst-case scenario, but it wasn’t logical.

Of course, there were thoughts that he couldn’t accept himself.

‘Should I assume that there’s also an NPC intelligence guild in Minis?’

The best Leeha could think of was Minis’ NPC woman like Fibiel’s NPC Madam Ju.

It was at that time that Faust opened his mouth, disturbing Leeha’s thoughts.

“Keuk…… 1st place ranker. Alexander, when was the last time you called yourself an emperor, when did you fall under an outsider who’s not as good as these dregs? Huh? If that’s the case, come over to us! Become the Demon King’s agent, your ranking will never drop to the 2nd place! What? If you let me go right now, there would be a considerable gap with Lee Jiwon, so I will kill Ha Leeha and specifically tell the Count to help you gain the same level of strength as me!”

Faust was literally making his last-ditch effort.

It was the opposite of the public evaluation that he was calm, a little cynical, and quick-witted, which was widely known.

And that appearance gave Leeha the confidence.

‘Once I look at Alexander’s reaction to that, it’s clear. There are no more Demon King’s agents among the users. I would have rather killed myself if there was. Anyway, if even one Demon King’s agent is still alive, our quest will not be completed. Of course, he doesn’t know the quest details, but…”

He would have had the guts if he had something to believe. No, on the contrary, if Faust had been an ignorant type, he would have been bluffing.

However, the disadvantage of smart users was that they had no choice but to show a pure side in terms of their own bodies, as Faust had done.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha was also curious about the identity of the hidden hand, but that wasn’t what was important to him at the moment.

Now that he had gotten a piece of information, he had to investigate again.

Leeha asked for the location of the most important NPC in this quest.

“Where is Bluebeard, Faust?”

“Hehe, what the hell are you? Did you just come to catch me without knowing anything?”

Faust eyes burned as he glared at Leeha.

“Just answer the question-”

Seeing that, Alexander gave strength to his hand that held the golden spear again, when a woman’s voice was heard from the left.

“Your eyes.”

Pachachachat-

It was then that Faust’s ‘eyeballs’ froze.

“Kuwaaaak! What, what is this?!”

“Don’t look at oppa like that.”

“C-crazy- ‘blindness’ abnormal status? What kind of skill do you have!”

“Her magic is always unexpected, so don’t try to guess.”

Ram Hwajung blasted the lizardia’s eyes and partially froze them using Freezing. It was to the extent that Kidd shook his head in admiration for her delicate mana control.

“Ah, I also got an achievement because Igor is ranked 3rd. It’s really amazing.”

“Does it make sense that you’re the only one who’s getting the good things? It was me who actually put him on the verge of death!”

“Since the chain lightning hit first and I got the last hit, of course, I am the one to get it, what are you talking about?”

And on the right side, Lee Jiwon and Luger were bickering.


Shyuuuuk-! Even Bailephus, with shining golden armor, landed next to Faust in humanoid form.

“Keuu, euuuu- you bastards! Do you think the count will leave you alone when he returns?! The demon king’s army will never die! It will only disappear for a moment!”

All the noises and voices around him instilled even stronger fear in Faust, who had become blind.

Faust was desperate in front of the Demon King’s army subjugation team, which directly produce an effect similar to a mind-related magic often used by users with demon-related jobs.

“I asked where Bluebeard is.”

“Kilkil, you madman. How would I know that?”

“What?”

“You will all die. The moment the count returns, all of you will be finished!”

Hearing Faust’s prattle, Leeha felt an ominous feeling.

‘……No way……?’

Gulp.

It was a question he had while watching the quest progress.

The quest will end when all of the Demon King’s army were killed. All of Demon King’s army. In other words, he thought that the final boss, Bluebeard, remained.

But what about this progress?

It was already at 78%!

‘Faust isn’t dead yet. Considering that when Igor and Crowley died and the progress rose by 16% and 14% respectively, it can be assumed that it will progress by 20% for Faust. But Bluebeard can’t be only 2%, right?’

Still, Leeha kept asking Faust if there was still someone else.

However, what was Faust’s reaction just now?

Leeha finally found the answer.

“……Bluebeard is not here.”


“Uhihihihi, Kuhuhuhuhu. Gold dragon! Are you listening?! What happened to my undead dragon?”

“Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh is now in eternal rest. You will no longer be able to control him with your filthy mana.”

“Kilkilkil, would you look at this. Neither the dragon, nor Alexander, none of you bastards know anything! Uhahahaha! In the end, I will be the winner! I am Bluebeard Count Le’s first servant!”

Faust laughed madly as he heard Bailephus’ solemn voice.

It was a feeling close to the exhilaration of being the only one who knew a secret.

“……Alexander-ssi’s disease is not easy, but you’re the same as well. You’re calling Bluebeard ‘count’ until the very end. Do you really like being in the Demon King’s army?”

Leeha shook his head and asked.

Faust opened his mouth, still unable to open his frozen eyes.

“You bastards would understand if you knew how many stats and what achievements I got. Didn’t I tell you, bastards? It is to get stronger! I can do anything to get stronger in Middle Earth!”

Faust shouted.

Without being able to see, he turned around and tried to feel something, even his head.

It wasn’t that his words were unreasonable. Leeha also understood.

“That’s right. It is Middle Earth”

“W-What?”

The obsession to become stronger, stat points, and items would have been a great advantage to join the Demon King’s army.

“Still. At least… I didn’t come to get you just because you’re part of the demon king’s army. Well, of course, quests are important.”

“Then why…”

“Why you ask? For personal reasons. Don’t you know it well?”

Leeha lifted the Black Bass. And put the rifle to Faust’s forehead.

The lizardia was startled as the cold muzzle touched his skin. But he couldn’t run away.


It was because all sorts of magic had already been cast on him, including Bailephus’ bind, Ram Hwajung’s freezing, and Lee Jiwon’s paralysis.

 “Keuu- damn it- daaaaamn it!”

“Faust-ssi. Whether you became the Demon King’s agent or not has nothing to do with me. However…… you shouldn’t have touched Gaza City.”

“You- you-”

Pheeeew…….

Leeha took a deep breath and finally opened his mouth.

“It is revenge for the Gaza knights and NPCs who died in ‘my city’, who could never be revived.”

“Ha Leeha, youuuu——!”

Baaaang———-!

The fanfare rang out as soon as the white lizardia’s head completely disappeared. Babam-!

『Achievement: Ranker Hunter(Top10) – 8th Rank, “Faust”(A)』

Congratulations!

You killed the 3rd of Middle Earth’s top 10 highest-level users.

I hope you didn’t kill him by luck. He might come back to steal the achievement of ‘Ranker Hunter’! Please be careful!

Effect: 34 temporary stat points(will be recovered when you get killed by the ranker you hunted)

(This achievement does not have a hall of fame.)

Watching his corpse slowly turn gray, Leeha opened the quest window again.

『Subjugation of the Demon King’s army』

Content: The death of all the Demon King’s army and Demon King’s agent in the current continet(98%)

Reward : ?

“As expected… Everyone, it’s over.”

“Hmm?”

“What do you mean by that?”

“Bluebeard is-”

“No. It’s over. If Fernand-ssi finds the few remaining monsters from the demon noble clan that haven’t arrived yet…. everything will be over. After the quest is over, I will tell in the Holy City. I’m a bit tired now.”

Leeha smiled.

He commanded three battlefields at the same time, and used more than ten magazine shells to cover Alexander.

It really took a lot of concentration in a short amount of time.

On top of that, Leeha felt as if his brain had been fried to the point where he had to expend all of his strength to interrogate Faust and dig up information.

“Drink this and rest. Oppa.”

“Oh, no, that- I did not lose any HP-”

“It’s Grand Recovery.”

“No, no. It’s more like a status abnormality.

”

“Haste, Quick, strength-”

“Uwaa, uwaaa?!”

Even though Leeha didn’t say anything special, all kinds of potions, buffs, and healing magic were cast on him after he said that he was tired.

In other words, the hearts of all the people gathered by Leeha, who had planned and carried out the perfect strategy while brilliantly leading the Demon King’s subjugation team, were expressed.

It took about two or three days for Fernand to find the trace back all the traces of the already dead demon nobles through all parts of Fernand and after that Leeha took care of all of them.

『Subjugation of the Demon King’s army』

Content: The death of the Demon King’s army and the Demon King’s agents currently in the continent(100%)

Reward : ?

They had finally satisfied all the conditions for subjugating the Demon King’s army quest which was received from the Pope.

‘Damn it……. That word bothered me from the start.’

Bluebeard was nowhere to be seen. It’s obviouse, there’s no way he’s dead.

Nevertheless, the quest was cleared.

‘『The current continent』……. That’s what is next after all.’

A chapter on this continent, where the kingdom of humans is located, had barely been put together.

“Is it all over now?”

“T-then. It’s really over. I’ll take care of it now

. I am really sorry.”

Leeha had no choice but to calm Ram Hwayeon down with an awkward smile.

It’s been another 3 days since Leeha left Gaza City to find, pursue, catch, and achieve 100% of the conditions for the Demon King’s agent.

In the meantime, Ram Hwayeon managed and restored the city without logging out once.

To the extent that when Leeha came back the city had changed beyond recognition.

“……Okay. Well, I’ll let you off the hook this time..”

“Huh? Aren’t you mad?”

“Hwaya, of course I am! ……. My Hwajung is also involved in this incident, right? I’. Ha Leeha, she said you told her to keep it a secret, but she didn’t even tell me! Tsk, how surprised I was to find out that the ranking had changed.”

“Huh? What?”

One of the requests Leeha made while receiving the quest from the Holy City was to keep it a secret.

Did Ram Hwajung not tell her own sister?!

It showed how much Ram Hwajung trusted Leeha.

‘It should be said that she is pure…… no, wait. But what has changed?’

Ram Hwayeon laughed as she saw Leeha’s eyes widenRam Hwayeon

“Hehe, thanks to that, people flocked to Castle Dale and other cities to see Hwajung! Tsk, I was going to ask you to give me something big for restoring the city, but isn’t this something I should be thankful for?”

Ram Hwayeon smiled brightly and tapped Leeha’s shoulder.

This was the biggest change that happened after killing all of the Demon King’s army. In this extremely difficult game, it was never easy to reverse once a decision had been made.

The rankings have changed!

‘Ram Hwajung, ranked 9th, and Faust, ranked 8th! Faust died and leveled down. And Kidd said that Ram Hwajung leveled up by killing monsters and Crowley’s giant golem! I-is that why they switched places? Are their level difference that close?’

Of course, that wasn’t the only reason. It was also because of severe ‘Death Penalty of the Demon King’s Army’, which Leeha did not know yet.

Because the penalty of ‘3 levels down’ was applied, the position of Faust and Ram Hwajung switched.

『You received a mail. Please check your mailbox』

That said, the death penalty for Demon King’s Army was not limited to Faust.

It was applied to all Demon King’s agents such as the dark mages and others that Faust had seduced that had rebelled against him.

Pei Wu: Ni hao, Ha Leeha-daehyung. I wanted to meet and talk to you, but I don’t know when you will be available, so I’m conveying my feelings through letter.

Leeha: Huh? Pei Wu-nim?

Pei Wu: All members of Hwangryong have gathered. I heard that there is a problem in the recently appointed city you are appointed as a lord, so if you need any force, please feel free to contact me or the guild master of Hwangryong. We will do our best to be of your strength any time.

Leeha: Huh? What? What do you mean by that so suddenly?

Pei Wu: Such humility with daehyung’s status. I would like to express my thanks once again. Xie xie!

Pei Wu’s whisper was suddenly cut off. There was no need to ask the person concerned.

“Excuse me…… Ram Hwayeon-ssi? By any chance, Pei Wu-nim-”

“Ah! Right. Yes, Pei Wu and Igor’s ranking also switched. How many months has it been? They made such a fuss after finally taking back the 3rd rank! It appeared on public broadcasting news, recovering the pride of a great country! Doing such a thing.”

In reality, it was surprising yet happy news for Leeha, who was too busy sleeping to watch the news or the community.

“The pride of a great country…. Haha, that’s interesting”

Leeha released a laugh.

It was the reason why Pei Wu whispered and even sent an email to express his gratitude to Leeha.

It was because he was not a member of the Demon King’s Army subjugation team, but he enjoyed the tremendous benefit of rising in the rankings and being broadcasted.

Kidd: What are you doing? We agreed to meet in front of the Holy City. Are you proud to be the lord of the castle?

Leeha: Is everyone gathered? Okay, I’ll go now!

Leeha listened to Kidd’s whisper and activated the crystal ball. Ram Hwayeon didn’t get flustered when she saw it now

.

“Finished?”

“Yes. I will go to the Vatican to see the Pope now, I think nothing will happen for a while.”

“Okay. I’ll prepare the handover document. It is what you need to do Ha Leeha, even a 3-year-old child can figure out what to do.”

“I don’t think a 3-year-old could but…… anyway, thank you very much.”

What would it have been like without Ram Hwayeon?

No matter how good Leeha was, he still was inexperienced in terms of administration and operation

.

The city would have been more impoverished and the lives of residents’ NPCs would have become more difficult while running here and there to catch the Demon King’s agent.

However, what about now?

Nearly 80% of it was restored in comparison to before Faust’s attack, and the remaining 20% was something that would naturally be filled over time.

Leeha’s sincerity also reached Ram Hwayeon.

(To be continued…)
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 Hearing his serious voice, Ram Hwayeon buried her face in the pile of paperwork.

“C-cough. If you’re grateful, pay it back in 5 days.”

“Huh?”

“I told you. I’m going to Korea. It’s not 5 days in Middle Earth, it’s 5 days in reality. Ah, so busy.”

Flip- flip-.

Ram Hwayeon turned over the papers with excessive movements and hid herself from Leeha’s gaze.

“W-wait? Five days later-”

Shyuuk-!

Without even being able to react, Leeha’s body moved to the Vatican. That was how the conversation ended and the space movement started.

Everyone had already gathered in front of the Pope’s audience chamber.

“-ah. oh-”

“Come. Come in.”

Although he hadn’t yet sorted his thoughts about Ram Hwayeon’s trip to Korea, Leeha couldn’t continue thinking about it after hearing Bailephus’ words.

“–Yes. Pardon me for being late. I’m going in.”

It was no longer necessary to exclude others from the Pope’s audience chamber.

According to the quest conditions, all of the Demon King’s army and agents were dead and the current quest was completed. Secrecy was no longer needed.

Inside the audience chamber, the Pope, high-ranking Ezwen Church officials, and cardinals and bishops of the Church of Ahlo were lined up.

“Your Holiness, the Pope, I just returned after completing the mission regarding the subjugation of the Demon King’s army and agents.”

“What happened to Bluebeard?”

Not only the Pope and the other NPCs, but also the users of the Demon King’s army subjugation team were waiting for Leeha to speak quickly.


All of them were either rankers or outsiders.

They could have guessed what it meant when the quest condition achievement rate reached 100%, but they couldn’t come up with an answer as certain as Leeha had.

“……Unfortunately, we couldn’t get him.”

“What? Then he-”

“The mission that Your Holiness the Pope had given us is to subdue all Demon King’s army and agents within the 『current continent』…. And without being able to catch Bluebeard, we killed all the Demon King’s army and agents in the 『current continent』.”

“……Then- Les…”

“Yes. Bluebeard is not in this continent.”

Leeha knelt and looked at the Pope and the cardinal NPCs around him.

The NPCs immediately figured out what the hidden meaning in Leeha’s words was.

No, perhaps it was only natural. Because they were NPCs set up according to Middle Earth’s intentions.

This was all a flow.

Why did the flow keep twisting right after they got the quest?

‘No, maybe we got the quest too soon, and it might also be the same with Fernand-ssi. He tried to get to ‘that side’ even faster than me…. Of course, at the time, I had no choice but to do it.’	

It must have been the system that hindered us from getting to ‘that side’ when the main quest of Middle Earth had not yet progressed.

Leeha slowly took a deep breath and gave his last report.

“The Demon King’s Fragment left… Across the Sea of Dawn.”

“Across the Sea of Dawn? He went to that place?”

“Yes.”

“Why……? The one who dared to think about humanity’s extinction and the revival of the Demon King…. Didn’t he stay and remain hidden in this continent until the end of the Human-Demon War even when everyone from their side fled after losing the war?!”

Listening to the Pope’s question, Leeha calmly expressed his thoughts.


‘Right. Middle Earth always gave hints in any quests.’

Considering the reason why Bluebeard moved, and the surprise when Bluebeard was discovered on this continent, it was a very natural conclusion.

“That’s right. Everyone said that when Bluebeard was first discovered. In the final battle of the 2nd human-demon, the Demon King’s army that was defeated all crossed the sea of dawn…… Therefore, Bluebeard shouldn’t be here…. However, that wasn’t the case. Indeed, Bluebeard succeeded in remaining on this continent. Now we have to reverse the assumption from the ground up, including director Browless and the Pope’s.”

“The notion that not only Bluebeard but also the other Demon King’s Fragment would be on this continent too……”

The Pope understood Leeha’s words.

Leeha nodded as he heard the Pope’s words, then opened his mouth again.

At that time, Leeha thought that was the flow of the quest. Based on the information that had been released up to that point, it was the best possibility.

“That’s right. However, that was not the case. No, maybe even Bluebeard didn’t know. The proof is that Bluebeard couldn’t afford to make a move even while being pursued by the Human Alliance. So, wouldn’t Bluebeard try to awaken his colleagues after waking up? Anyway, he went around looking for other Fragments of the Demon King. That is the reason why he awakened the demon nobles, teamed up with the deviant red dragon, and spread chimeras all over the continent to cause chaos.”

“That’s why…”

“Yes. It’s a distraction. He carefully planned to appear all over the continent and pretended to overturn it, but he was only looking for the other fragments. And his search would have ended at some point.”

“Are you saying that he couldn’t find other fragments- does that mean he didn’t find Ghibrid and Pyrot Cocri?”

“That’s right. So he left. In search for his comrades who crossed the Sea of Dawn during the 2nd Human-Demon War. And he was afraid that he would be chased if that fact was discovered, that is why he used an agent to distract us.”

Whisper, whisper.

Players and NPCs, nodded their heads, made serious expressions, or were lost in thought.

“……That’s why he didn’t provoke the Lord.”

The ancient gold dragon’s words confirmed that Leeha’s words were correct.

The reason why Bluebeard did not provoke the platinum dragon Bahamut was because he left for the new continent to avoid interference in his departure to the new continent.

“Yes. If he really intended to cause the 3rd Human-Demon War immediately, there was no reason to act like that. The day Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was shot, the war should have started. Pope-nim, no, Your Holiness, the Pope, I ask you once more.”

“……Tell me.”

Pope Gaius IV looked at Leeha with a tired expression, as if he was weighed down by thoughts.


Leeha inhaled.

Even if you didn’t suggest it, the next thing will flow naturally anyway.

‘However…… someone still has to make this suggestion. That’s all…… because it will complete Middle Earth’s 『Phase 2』.’

Leeha recalled a phrase that appeared on Middle Earth’s official website.

“We must gather the descendants of the heroes. Before Bluebeard awakens another fragment of the demon king, we must find him in the new continent and get rid of him. To prevent the 3rd Human-Demon war.”

“Didn’t you say you couldn’t confirm when he left? What if Ghibrid and Pyrot Cocri had already woken up in the new continent? Wouldn’t the damage accumulate then? In that case, in the name of Lord Ahlo, I think it would be better to enlist the cooperation of all nations and strengthen the defense posture. What is it?”

“No. That’s not it. In this case-”

Hoooo…….

Leeha slowly opened his bag. He took out a little winged key. It was the holy relic he received after becoming a Demon King’s army subjugation team leader.

While holding the holy relic with both hands, Leeha presented it to the Pope.

“-I think that 『attack is the best defense』. Please allow me to organize an expedition to the new continent.”

『You have completed the ‘Demon King’s Army Subjugation’ quest.』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have acquired 3 stat points.』

『Continent Fame increased by 1,500.』

『Intimacy with all NPCs of the Holy City Ezwen increased by 20%.』

*** “New continent expedition…. But I can’t decide that on my own. I am the earthly representative of Lord Ahlo, but…. On the other hand, I am only the leader of the Ezwen religion. I can’t decide on something that needs a lot of capital and manpower right away.”

“Ah…”

The pope participates in the coronation of all kings, but he does not have all the commanding power.

From Ezwen’s perspective, a “small country” that is vertical in spiritual relations but only horizontal and maybe less in real relations, he cannot lead a large project of exploring the new continent.

It wasn’t frustrating to Leeha.

What kind of person was he? He had already completed quests related to the new continent

He was a user who had completed related quests.

When Leeha tried to make a proposal first, another user who had completed the new continent quest ‘before’ Leeha opened his mouth.

“You don’t have to worry about that, Your Holiness.”

“Fernand? What do you mean I don’t have to worry.”

Fernand, who was kneeling behind him, stood up from his seat and looked at the Pope and the other players.

“I’m already in agreement with the King of Fibiel. He said that if I participated, he would set up an expedition to the new continent. Of course, Leeha, the subjugation leader, is also included. It would be much easier if the Holy Father lent us his name. Can you leave this job to me?”

Fernand looked alternately at the pope and Leeha.

It looked like he was talking to the pope, but in reality, he was asking someone else.

Leeha: Fernand-ssi?

Fernand: Leeha-nim already has the right to join the new continent expedition anyway. Besides, I have some friends in Kraven and Minis, so if I’m going to lead the expedition, it’s better for me to move because I have more intimacy-

Leeha: Thank you. Please.

Fernand’s chatter, which seemed to continue indefinitely, was quickly cut off.

‘Right, I’m the number one contributor to Fibiel. If it was Fibiel’s decision, it would be quicker for me to meet the king and negotiate……’

Fernand really was the Pioneering King.

He, who wants to go to a new place, knows best what kind of preparation, how much, and from whom to get it.

“I understand. If so, I will ask each country to cooperate. Will you take care of this job, fernand?”

Fernand’s body trembled for a moment.

Users around him knew he was looking at a quest window.

.

“Yes. Please leave it to me.”

“And I want to ask all of you who were in the subjugation team again.”

Shuuuk-!

The moment the pope opened his mouth again, a notification window appeared in front of the other users.

『The Embers of the New Continent Expedition』

Description: ‘You who have killed all of the Demon King’s army and agents on this continent, are the knights of punishment given by Lord Ahlo …. If the new continent expedition is formed, I want to borrow your strength once more. It will be easier to gather the strength of the other heroes if you, the Demon King’s Subjugation Team, participate first.’

I want you to be a member of the newly formed New Continent Expedition.

However, remember that your life will not be guaranteed on the long journey.

That the mana present on the current continent may not reach the unknown land that no human being had ever reached!

Content: Arrive in the new continent after joining the new continent expedition

Reward: ??

Advanced Compensation: 3 stat points

Supply of rare potions from Ahlo Temple in the current continent(Daily Limit: 2)

Failure conditions: Destruction of the expedition ship or death of all the expedition members before reaching the new continent

Penalty for failure: Achievement: Human Sacrifice for Demons

Continental Reputation -20,000 Affinity with all countries in the current continent -50%

– Would you like to accept?

‘The advanced compensation is 3 stat points? Rare potions are expected- no, the stat points are ridiculous!’

“What is this…”

Kidd’s quiet words spoke of everyone’s thoughts. It was rare to give stat points even as a normal reward.

It’s not even a success reward, but an advanced compensation?

There was also the supply of rare potions, but the stat points was so great that it was ignored.

‘In other words- it means that the quest will be difficult. The current continent’s mana not working must be a hint.’

The conditions for failure are not tight.

The destruction of all the ships or the death of all the members of the expedition.

In other words, even if they died, they could succeed as long as they managed to reach the new continent with only one expedition user in a boat.

However, that was not reassuring.

It meant that it would be so difficult that even with this level of condition, they had to give that much reward.

“Bailephus-nim, the current continent’s mana doesn’t work on the new continent?”

He couldn’t just click the accept button. Leeha asked Bailephus first.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 375

				
 “Mana is the basic energy of nature. The mana here and there are essentially the same. If it doesn’t work, it is something related to space. Perhaps because of the new land and distance to it, space travel is impossible. As long as space movement magic such as teleportation and crystal balls are impossible. As long as those magic are impossible, no one would be able to use flying magic indefinitely…… it should be considered that it is impossible to fly.”

Bailipus is an NPC related to Middle Earth’s system, and his statement that space movement is impossible is probably the correct answer.

After that, fernand shook his head and continued talking.

“Oh, I can tell you a little about the new continent expedition…… I think it would be discouraging, but I have to tell you in advance. Especially for mages, polymorph won’t be easy to use. I don’t know about dragons. Even in the sky, there are obstacles. You will have to deal with them while flying, but it will be difficult to polymorph. Unless, as Bailephus-nim said, you can use fly magic and even use attack magic.”

“Phew-! So that means you can only go there by ship. Isn’t this quest almost crazy? It is driving us to our death.”

Luger cutoff Fernand’s words with a frown.

This time, Leeha had no choice but to agree.

What did it mean to not be able to move in space?

What if they went to the new continent once, especially when the ships were attacked along the way and they barely reached the new continent, and the ships became unusable?

‘It’s fortunate if it could be fixed, but if it couldn’t, it means that we might not be able to come back. No crystal ball, no fly or polymorph, you can’t even think of death and resurrection. Death and resurrection were on the closest village… in other words, if things don’t work out-’

『You cannot return to the current continent』

Until the new continent expedition is organized again, the stable connected route and the pioneering base were established.

In other words, they had to wait for the latecomers who were stronger than they currently were to rescue them.

It meant that they had no choice but to live as drifters on the new continent.

In an unknown land where there was no support, including items, and no place of safety.

“How did Fernand-ssi come back then?”

“We turned back. Before we all died. The other ships sacrificed themselves for me to survive.”

Fernand’s light remark made the atmosphere in the hall heavy.

There was a difference in growth between then and now, but the difficulty was enough that the Pioneering King gave up on going to the new continent.

 “Amaaazing, then it’s going to give pioneering experience to the first person to reach the new continent? It’s good to accept it.”


“L-Lee Jiwon-ssi? To carelessly-”

“That’s right. Since when did we avoid risks? If you miss the quest opportunity, you will have to chase after my back like the other users. The rewards we received just by wiping out the Demon King’s army in the current continent. Did you forget about the great experience, stats, and continental reputation? Most importantly, there are still the descendants of the other heroes. There are many ways to connect the new continent to the current one. Middle Earth is always like that.”

“Kidd? It makes sense, but…”

Lee Jiwon and Kidd were just the beginning.

“To achieve justice, adversity is a matter of course.”

“I will go, oppa.”

Alexander and Ram Hwajung as well. With their determination, they pressed the accept buttons.

“……Damn it, you guys. If all of you guys leave, I will have no one to fight in this continent.”

Lastly, except for Leeha, Luger has also accepted the quest.

In such an atmosphere, it was only natural for Leeha to take action.

“Your Holiness the Pope, then can I give this item to Fernand?”

“Hmm. So be it. I’ll ask for your cooperation, but there must be the power of the holy relic.”

Leeha held out the key he was holding to Fernand.

“As a member of the new continent expedition, I would like to ask for a favor. Please prepare well, fernand-ssi.”

The moment Leeha pressed the accept button, the wings at the end of the key flapped for a moment.

『Old man’s key』

Effect: Buff – 『Ahlo’s Protection』 to the holder

Description: A gift from Ahlo to his earthly representative. There is a long conflict between the two theories, the spiritual symbol theory, which means opening the closed mind of humans, and the physical reality theory, which is a necessity to go to Upper Earth where Ahlo is in order to actually see the body of God.

The 77th pope, leoreo XIII, left a will to present the treasures of the pope to those who end this confrontation, but the situation hasn’t been resolved yet.

“Of course. The deadline I received was two months. As we select candidates for the expedition, including descendants of heroes, and draw support from each country, we ask you to be prepared. Sailing to the new continent will not be easy. That’s probably the purpose of the provided potions.”


Fernand briefly mentioned the contents of the quest and received the key.

The strongest expedition team of humanity to chase after the Demon King’s Fragment slowly prepared.

“That’s what happened.”

“T-that’s what happened? Now what- Do you think I will understand everything if you say, ‘That’s what happened’ out of the blue at the end of a long story like that?”

Kijung jumped around in from of Leeha.

“Kikis, halihali-ssi is too much. If something like that happens, you should call us as well!”

“It’s already happened. Rather, I am attracted to the New Continent Expedition. Are we allowed to participate?”

Biyemi and Tale told Leeha that they were disappointed.

“It’s not that I didn’t want to- it’s just that you are vital to the guild. Even if you guys don’t believe it, I did it because there was a possibility that a word or two going out from other guild members’ mouths could enter the ears of the ‘hidden hand’. I’m sorry. And if it’s the new continent expedition-”

Leeha knew the power of Byulcho well, but they couldn’t join the Demon King’s army subjugation.

The more they had, the harder it was to keep the secret.

“-It’s a quest that Fernand-ssi received…… In addition to the heroes’ successors, others can apply as well. I think he mentioned some tests. Anyway, after persuading each country, accurate information will come out.”

“Hmmm.”

Tale nodded. It was natural that he couldn’t afford to take the weak on what would be a dangerous quest.

“I-indeed. Actually, it would have been easy to get caught if I, Biyemi-nim, Tale hyung, and Hyein hyung came. I’ll let you pass this time, eong-ah.”

“Hmm, what am I going to do if you didn’t forgive me? Anyway, I gave you the information about the new continent in advance, so be alert.”

“Okay. We should plant a flag in the new continent in the name of Byulcho.”

Kijung’s eyes burned as he didn’t want to get left out this time.

“Kiskis, what is Halilhali-ssi going to do now?”

“I have something to pick up, so I’m going to stop by the Holy Grill. And then I’m going to get some sleep.”


Leeha stretched out and answered Biyemi’s question.

What he was looking for was data on Blaugrunn.

These days, it was necessary to know a little more about the hatchling on Leeha’s shoulder that always disappears and comes and goes.

It was because Leeha felt the need to properly understand how to utilize Blaugrunn before leaving for the new continent.

“Ah! Hyung! You know about the promise this Saturday, right?”

“Promise?”

“That promise! I thought you’d forget. This time, we have to find good restaurants.”

“A-ahh! Great, it is close. Is it Monday right now?”

It was the day they decided to meet Shin Nara and Bobae again! It was Saturday, two weeks after the promise!

“Don’t forget this time! Take a good rest and don’t log into Middle Earth! Then, if you get involved in another quest, I’m afraid you will break the promise.”

“Kek, can’t I. I’ll take care of it, so don’t worry-”

Suddenly, another person’s voice rang in Leeha’s head.

‘Today is Tuesday. And earlier- what did she say before he left for the Holy City-’

『I told you. I’m going to Korea. It’s not the 5th in Middle Earth, it’s the 5th in reality.』

Tue, wed, thu, fri, sat.

What time will the eldest daughter of the Ram Long group’s president arrive in Korea? It was naturally on the weekend.

“K-Kijung, I’m going!”

“Huh? Where are you going all of a-”

Leeha immediately returned to Gaza City.

*** “I almost got a little angry because you said you would come back right after and went to Byulcho instead.”

“S-sorry. But Ram Hwayeon-ssi?”

Leeha saw her as soon as he entered Gaza City’s castle. Ram Hwayeon was still looking at something and writing quickly at the same time.

“Why? I’m busy writing the takeover letter right now, so if it’s not urgent, tell me later.”

“No, that- … you’re coming to Korea this Saturday, right? Can you postpone that-”

“Yes. I will arrive at ICN at 10am. Ah, iCN is Incheon International Airport, right? Come over there.”

“Huh? I will go there?”

“I don’t know Korea’s geography, so what am I supposed to do? I have a few schedules where I go on inspections with my entourage, but I can finish them in no time. you will- hmm, go…… with me until then.”

Her voice, which had been speaking without hesitation, murmured at the end.

She was embarrassed to say it, so she hit her head with documents again. Looking at Ram Hwayeon’s red hair, Leeha was taken aback.

‘I was going to ask to postpone it- but what’s happening now- what does she think my situation is…?’

“Look, I didn’t tell you in advance, but I have trouble with my legs right now, so it’s a little-”

“Can’t you ride a limousine?”

“The limousine is not the problem-”

“Okay, wait. ……Done. I told Jachung to change it to the biggest van. To stretch your legs. Is that okay?”

“Huh? Oh?”

Did she just give the order to change the vehicle via whisper at that moment? Leeha couldn’t keep up with her speed.

“No, it’s something weird. Aren’t you supposed to go on inspection or something? That would be your company’s business.”

There may be something to do with trade secrets. But you want to go around with me, an outsider?

Ram Hwayeon’s answer to Leeha’s question was as expected, with her getting embarrassed at the end.

“I don’t care. You’re not the type to brag about anything you see or hear…… It might be better for you to take a look.”

“What?”

No. No, no. Anyway! I barely made it, so keep your promise! Okay?”

“Cough…… first…… okay.”

Leeha couldn’t help but nod his head.

‘I can’t help it if this happens.’

A promise is a promise. She helped me so much.

In the end, Leeha had no choice but to whisper to Shin Nara.

Leeha: Nara-ssi!

Shin Nara: Oh, Leeha-ssi! What is it, what is it? Fernand-nim just came to the royal palace! They also ordered me to go to the new continent. Leeha-ssi will also go, right?

Leeha: Ah, yes, t-that’s how it turned out. Haha.

Shin Nara: Hii~ I will have to meet you and ask the rest. So why did you contact me? What did you want to say to me ‘after a long time’? Even if you are indifferent, you’re too indifferent.

Nara’s reprimanding voice made Leeha’s heart heavy. But not talking would be a bigger deal.

Leeha: Cough, perhaps…… do you have time other than Saturday?

Shin Nara: Our meeting? Do you want to postpone it?

Leeha: Ah…… yes, I’m sorry. There’s an emergency-

For a moment, it seemed as if Shin Nara’s expression could be seen with just her whispered words.

Nara’s voice, suddenly cut off, making Leeha more nervous than angry.

Leeha: Nara-ssi?

Shin Nara: ……Alright. I don’t think I can’t make it this weekend because of intensive training anyway…… it can’t be helped.

Leeha: No, that- next time, we can meet near Nara-ssi’s lodging or something! I will go there and-

Shin Nara: It’s okay. Why do you have to do that when you’re busy? I’ll also tell Bobae. Thank you for telling me in advance.

Tuk

For Leeha, Shin Nara’s sadness was as scary as Ram Hwayeon’s anger. No matter what it was, it had the power to shut Leeha up.

‘Urgh……!’

Should I send another whisper? Should I say it’s because of Ram Hwayeon?

‘No, that- that’s just pouring gas on a burning house. Damn iiiiiit! I would rather! I would have rather fought Bluebeard! I’d rather do that! Damn it, damn it! Stupid, stupid!’

Leeha banged his head against the wall of Gaza City’s office.

“What are you doing? You already have a bad head, you’re making it worse.”

Ram Hwayeon tried to stop him with a joke, but Leeha did not stop blaming himself.

(To be continued…)
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 Boom, boom, boom-!

“Excuse me! It’s getting in the way of work?! Sit next to me…… and look at the takeover report in advance! Don’t bother me!”

Ram Hwayeon’s voice woke Leeha up.

There was nothing to be solved by worrying anyway.

He had no choice but to pay back the mistake he made to Shin Nara now by being nicer to her some day!

“……Right. I’d rather work.”

Forget about it for now. Focusing on one thing and missing the other is the worst thing a sniper could do!

“Huh?”

“I will work. All tips and know-how related to the operation of Gaza City! And even your opinions about the future development! Tell me everything, Ram Hwayeon-ssi! All of it! I will study until my head explodes!”

Leeha sat down on the chair next to Ram Hwayeon.

“What should I read first?”

‘Oh, that•- That, that. If you learn the commands from the NPC steward-”

“Good. I will memorize them all.”

Leeha aggressively grabbed the pile of paper and started reading it. Without even knowing that his forearm was touching Ram Hwayeon’s forearm.

Ram Hwayeon while glancing at Leeha was sending signals to him as their arms were slightly brushing together.

Of course, it was not something that Leeha would notice.

At this moment the promise with Shin Nara was broken and the promise with Ram Hwayeon was confirmed, and Leeha was engrossed in studying.

4 days in reality was 20 days in Middle Earth.

Leeha read all of Ram Hwayeon’s reports related to the management of Gaza City and the report on “hatchlings” provided by the Holy Grill located in Gaza City.

“Lord-nim, this is the report for this week’s revenue and expenditure you mentioned.”


“Ah! You’ve worked hard, Paytor-ssi. This week’s expenses are…. That’s right, when did you say that the repair of the wall would be finished? I think it was recently.”

Leeha skillfully flipped through the report and checked the figures. It had already been more than 15 days since Ram Hwayeon left.

It was the end of the second week which Leeha handled things alone. This was already his second practical experience.

“I’m on my way after checking it just now, but Chief Engineer Bottleneck said that it could take another day or two-”

“Okay. Then, look for a place for a smithy where minerals can come and go smoothly. A place where the Chief Engineer can use as an office and workshop at the same time. You can ask Chief Engineer Bottleneck what equipment he needs and buy them.”

“The price-”

“You don’t have to worry about the price. Buy them all, Paytor-ssi. Well, starting with the bellows, all the necessary equipment and tools!”

“I understand, my lord. Chief Engineer Bottleneck will also be grateful for the lord’s full support.”

“Haha, I have to. If I didn’t do so, they would go back to Hell Anvil. So, please take care of them for me.”

“That is uncertain. Then I will go now.”

More than half a month of practice. Of course, it means that he had enough time to get acquainted with the NPC in charge of management, the NPC Ram Hwayeon called ‘steward’.

Paytor bowed to Leeha and walked out of the office.

‘Phew……. 15,418 gold spent and 15,3337 gold earned this week. Well. There won’t be any cut this week.’

The city was still in the negative. It had no choice but to be because the city functions were not fully restored and only the spending continued.

Of course, Leeha had no shortage of personal properties.	”

The five items he got from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair hadn’t been sold yet.

He had quite a bit of gold he received from Pei Wu.

There was also a weekly settlement steadily received from Castle Dale. Leeha also sold the ‘miscellaneous items’ he got from hunting.

The total amount of Leeha’s assets in Middle Earth was around 12,000 gold.

In the meantime, due to the fluctuations in the international market, the value of Middle Earth’s gold had decreased slightly.


‘I can sell it if I need to, but…… it’s not that urgent. My operation fee and my mom’s shop will have to be ready soon, so I can’t use this money carelessly.’

Even in terms of the flow, the situation is not urgent enough for Leeha to sell his items.

The city is now 93% repair.

Even at this level, it has almost caught up with the amount of expenditure.

Once the repair reaches 100%, the city will have profits and refill the city’s vault which is currently empty.

‘It wouldn’t have happened if I was alone.’

How much money did Ram Hwayeon spend until 2 weeks ago?

After Leeha took over the management of Gaza City, he did not know how many times he was surprised after seeing the revenue and expenditures of the previous weeks for the first time.

‘The income was 1,350 and the expenditure was 28,300…. It was bankruptcy. To the point where I wanted to sell the city and run away. No, it didn’t even need to be sold. I just had to give up the right to be the lord of the castle. To manage the operation under such circumstances… she really is amazing.’

Ram Hwayeon opened the vault and devoted herself to the restoration of the by pouring out all the money that Gaza City had collected appropriately.

The heroic items brought by Blaugrunn were also very helpful, but it goes without saying that if was effective because it was used unsparingly, leaving only 47 gold in the Gaza City’s vault.

That quick judgment and drive. It was a decision that clearly contained her philosophy of making money flow out, not holding onto it.

“We will break even next week, and maybe we could even profit the week after that? Ah, I have to take care of the knights too. I heard that the level of the NPC guild goes up the more you spend on training and equipment…… If I want to level them up more, it will take another 4 to 5 weeks before I could make a profit.”

The Gaza Knights, carefully selected by Byulcho, had grown from level 150 to 200. Normally, it would have been enough, but Leeha did not want to let his guard down.

It could be said that the Demon King’s agents had disappeared, but Leeha knew that there would be some kind of danger that would come.

‘We’ll have to go to the new continent to catch Bluebeard… but it isn’t certain. He might come back. Are we going to cross, or will they cross? As long as there’s no guarantee that they will move or not, I must be fully prepared. The number of knights should be increased according to the situation, and their level should be raised to the highest level available right now.’

Leeha opened his friend’s window and looked at Fernand’s location.

He was in the Shazrashian Federation at the moment. After staying at Fibiel and Minis for more than a week each, fernand moved again.

“Ughhh! It’s tough. It would be more convenient for users to be able to level up by spending money just by spending money just like the knight NPCs. Isn’t that right, blaugrun-ssi?”

Leeha opened his character window while talking to Blaugrunn.


Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level : 175 (3.1%)

Title : Fearless / Achievements: 108

HP: 5,950(4,165) / MP: 1,345

Stats: Strength: 334(+249) Agility: 2,684(+918) Intelligence: 148(+97) Constitution: 215(+122)

Mind: 52(+42)

Remaining Stat Points: 50

This time, there were no special achievements or stats, so Leeha invested all of it to his agility without any worries.

His agility is now 2,734.

『Kyu, kyuu~ kyuu』

Blaugrunn, who was lying face down on the other side of the desk in the office, shook his head while looking down.

“Haha, are you saying you can’t be bothered to think about such boring things?”

『Kyu』

And then it nodded. Over the past 15 days or so, Leeha wasn’t just getting used to city management.

Flap, flap, flap-!

Blaugrunn flapped his small wings and flew toward Leeha. Now Leeha knew what each gesture meant.

“Cough, do you know that you have been eating too often? If you eat a lot and grow up quickly, it would be good for me too, but…”

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

“Aack! Okay, okay, wait. You know I can’t get it out of nowhere, right?”

Leeha opened his bag and took out several items.

The method Leeha managed to find by combining the data on the hatchling he obtained from the Holy Grill and the information he obtained through Bailephus and Bahamut!

“One rare health potion, two special status ailments potions…… with this as the base of the sauce- hmm, the only ingredients left are a couple of strings of snake meat, so this is fine, right? 『Seasoned snake skewers』, call?”

『Kyu! Kyukyu!］

Blaugrunn nodded vigorously and was drooling.

Leeha laughed while looking at the bronze dragon.

‘R-really. Even if the hatchling was a dragon, the only way for it to grow was to eat……’

Of course, the difference was that the food was expensive items that ordinary users would not be able to afford, and Leeha had to give it frequently, but fortunately for Leeha, it was not that burdensome.

Most importantly, this fact was emphasized by the fact that although a ‘rare’ potion must be added, Leeha received 2 free rare potions per day!

‘When he becomes an adult he won’t need to eat, but at the hatchling and juvenile levels, they still need to feed… I need to feed him not only for growth but also for magic.’

That was the reason why Blaugrunn stumbled and almost collapsed last time with a single use of recovery magic, and disappeared from Leeha’s side.

His partner didn’t feed him, so he had to feed himself!

Even with such a body and condition, the act of bringing items while even using subspace magic for Leeha can be said as the bronze dragon’s good characteristics.

“Now, let’s go to the kitchen!”

『Kyuuuu-! Kyuuu, kyuuu-!』

Blaugrunn flapped its small wings and circled above Leeha’s head. Another passed on Leeha’s schedule in Gaza City like this.

Leeha immersed himself in his work to forget distracting thoughts, but that did not stop the time.

Saturday came quickly.

“Quick, quick, push fast! If we miss this bus, the next one will be in 15 minutes. We will be late then!”

“So hyung, your hair- it wasn’t time to get your hair done!”

Creeeeak-!

The wheels on Leeha’s wheelchair slid down as if it was drifting. It was normal for the person behind the wheelchair to feel his thighs exploding.

In order to postpone their appointment with Bobae and Shin Nara, Leeha had to inform Kijung and also had to tell him the reason.

‘Who? Ram Hwayeon? Is that the Ram Hwayeon we know?’

‘Yeah. Help me out. It isn’t convenient if I want to get to Incheon Airport……’

‘No, that- wait, ung-ah. Ram Hwayeon is in Korea? Is she with Ram Hwajung? Don’t you remember how much I suffered from those girls?’

‘T-that’s an old thing.’

‘……I still clearly remember the time Ram Hwajung froze my head……. I still remember the feeling of my neck snapping like a toy……’

However, there was no way the kind-hearted Kijung could refuse Leeha.

That’s why right now, on a Saturday morning, to catch the bus to the airport, he came to Leeha’s house and hurriedly ran.

“Oh, oh- here comes the bus, here comes the bus!”

“We want to ride! Ride! Driver-ajussi! Wait a minute! Stop!”

The two young men, who started a fuss early in the morning, managed to get on the airport bus.

After folding the wheelchair and putting it in the luggage compartment, Kijung, with the help of the bus driver, lifted Leeha and sat him down on the chair.

“I’m sorry, Kijung-ah. If I save a little bit more, I could pay for the surgery-”

“It’s okay, it’s okay. Eong-ah, what are you sorry for? Just treat me later!”

“Still, thanks to you, I will actually meet Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung. Isn’t it?”

“Tsk. What can I do about it? I’ll just take you there and go home. I wasn’t even invited, so what if I am there?”

“Yes, but…… anyway, thank you and sorry.”

Kijung’s role was literally Leeha’s movement aid. Leeha could not say anything because he knew it as well.

“But eong-ah, did Ram Hwayeon really call? Did she really want you to buy her for when she went to Korea?” “Hmm, well. Yes.”

“You broke your promise to Shin Nara-nim because of that? This, eong-ah paid attention to his hairstyle too?”

Even at the moving Kijung looked at Leeha strangely.

Leeha only shook his head with an absurd expression because he clearly knew what the thoughts in those eyes were.

“Hey! Don’t think anything weird. You know, this time Gaza City got smashed and suffered greatly. Of course, I am really grateful to her…”

(To be continued…)
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 “Cough, that’s also true. Certainly, if it wasn’t for Ram Hwayeon, your personal property would have been forfeited. That’s Middle Earth’s system.”

 “Right. My head…… phew, she’s a guest coming from abroad, so I can’t meet her looking terrible. It’s because I learned something from our last meeting with Nara-ssi. You said it back then as well. There’s nothing wrong with dressing up and going out.”

Leeha was not without his own difficulties.

It was just like that when he met Shin Nara, but there’s no way that Leeha did not want to look good. Even more so, after experiencing it once, it became his standard.

Leeha thought about it for a few nights until he decided to go out properly anyway.

“That’s it, though. hmm…… I’m worried about auntie. What would her reaction be if a Hong Kong woman suddenly visited and introduced herself as her daughter-in-law-”

“w-what- what are you talking about now?”

“Haha, what do you mean ‘what’? I didn’t say anything.”

“D-d-don’t talk nonsense. Especially in front of mom. What do you mean Ram Hwayeon- don’t talk nonsense! She’s from a global conglomorate.”

“So what? The daughter of a global conglomorate is coming to Korea to see you.”

“That’s not it. It’s for something else.”

Kijung’s eyes turned crescent shaped as he made fun of Leeha.

Kijung said it in a teasing way, but Leeha’s mind was restless.

‘I really don’t know. What the hell am I going to do?’

Leeha did not know how his heart felt, so he could not help but get frustrated.

***

The bus arrived at the airport at 9:00am. The two approached the arrival gate.

There were already a lot of people in front of the gate.

“Uwaa, there’s a lot of people. Why are there so many people coming to greet arrivals? It’s not even a tour-”

“No…… I don’t think so. This atmosphere…”


Kijung was surprised and looked at Leeha.

The laces of the people busily walking around emanated the smell of ’employee card’. There was a war of wits between the people who were wary of their surrounding and people who were trying to breakthrough.

The people fighting for a good spot also held huge cameras.

“A celebrity must be coming.”

“Oh! That makes sense. No, no, if it is a celebrity, shouldn’t there be a lot more fans? These people don’t look like fans.”

Leeha’s interest in them faded as the clock hand reached 10.

Kijung made fun of Leeha but he was just as excited as him.

“It’s 10 o’clock. The plane must have arrived by now.”

“How long does it usually take to get in and out? It usually takes 30 to 40 minutes for foreigners to pass through Incheon.”

“Shall we buy a drink or something? I’m suddenly thirsty.”

Leeha and Kijung overlooked one fact. No, maybe it was because it was a fact that they didn’t know from the start.

Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung belong to the Ram Long family, one of the largest conglomerates in the world. What did it mean for such people to come to other countries in Asia?

There’s no way that they, who make the political and business world noisy with foreign investments, will waste time with “entry procedures”.

Just seven minutes after arriving and boooom——- The gates opened.

The attendants in black suits jumped out first.

Walking in the middle was a stately woman with red-Brown hair and a woman with a blue-black hair.

Although it was not as pronounced as in Middle Earth, Leeha and Kijung were able to recognize them just with their unique hair color.

“Hyung!”

“Oh, ram- uwaaak?!”

The moment Leeha and Kijung saw the two. A war began to break out around them.


Ignoring the fact that there was a person in a wheelchair, everyone around them pushed Leeha and Kijung and ran as if they were about to break the fence.

Only then did Leeha and Kijung learned the identity of the people around them.

“Their out! It’s Ram Hwayeon!”

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi! Ram Hwayeon-ssi! I’m from MBS! Is it true that the purpose of your visit to Korea this time is to build a new resort and select a new tourist destination!? There was also talk of investing in a consortium with the US hotel industry. Please tell me if that project is being carried out in detail!”

“Is it to show Ram Long’s will to already inspect the land that has not yet been announced for bidding? Or are you trying out new possibilities as the head of new business development?”

“Ram Hwajung here! Here- only take pictures of the blue-haired girl, we’re getting views with that! The title is ‘Ram Long’s youngest princess, finally enters the country’! Do you know Kimchi? Let’s go!”

“What is the purpose of Ram Hwayeon who came to Korea after saying that she would not be involved in any business at the group level other than a virtual reality game? Opinions are divided as to whether this is foreshadowing a major personnel reorganization! Say something!”

The only thing that came out of the reporters’ mouth camped out in front of the gate were of current affairs or business related news.

At least for them, Ram Hwayeon’s trip to Korea was an event that went beyond a visit to a world-class idol.

Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung did not .

“I will tell you all about it!”

“Don’t worry! Don’t worry!”

Protecting them as if they were already used to it, the bodyguard just started fighting with the reporters.

They were looking around without answering anything.

“Wow…… what is this……

“Crazy, what is this? Ram Hwayeon- here, Ram Hwayeon-ssi!”

In the gap between the reporters and bodyguards bickering, Leeha managed to raise his hand and call them and call them.

“向活않률!”

“One word- one question! Ram Hwayeon-ssi! 念透理! 念透理!”

However, Leeha’s words did not reach them.


The fight between the reporters and bodyguards grew more intense and the noire got louder.

“Kijung, push me!”

“Okay!”

In the end, Kijung and Leeha had no choice but to launch a sudden assault.

A rare combination of the tanker Master Kay pushing the ranged dealer Ha Leeha accelerated in front of Incheon Airport.

“Ram Hwayeon! Ram Hwayeon! Damn it, why do you call someone and pretend you don’t know them! I have worked so hard ever since this morning!”

Paat- paat-!

The speed of Leeha’s wheelchair and Kijeung’s pushing combined together was like the speed of a heavy tank!

“oh, oh, dodge!”

“Uwah! A handicapped person- dodge! dodge! It’s going to crash!”

The reporters and bodyguards split into two sides again due to the men’s untimely charge.

“Keuk! H-Hyung!”

However, perhaps due to the path suddenly widened, Kijung slipped and fell.

“Oh, Kijung-ah, s-stop- the breaks-”

After Leeha and Kijung split the crowd like Moses’ miracle, Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung finally saw them.

Their eyes were startled and their cheeks started to heat up in an instant.

A runaway wheelchair running towards those girls?!

Ram Hwayeon, who read the situation in an instant, was flustered(?) for a moment, her younger sister who moved faster than her thought, started running to Leeha.

“U-uwah, b-be careful, the speed of the wheelchair is-”

Leeha could see what her words meant by running toward him while shouting “jump” at the wheelchair that did not slow down properly.

『Oppa!』

“Kuwak!”

Pook……. Ram Hwajung embraced Leeha, who was sitting in a wheelchair, and succeeded in reducing the speed of Leeha’s wheelchair.

Feeling the light yet heavy shock, Leeha thought for the first time that he was fortunate that his lower body was paralyzed.

Looking at the face of the blue-black haired beautiful girl sitting on his lap, no, strictly speaking, “hugging” him.

“Oh…”

“Ha Leeha?! Hwajung, you, c-come down right away!”

Ram Hwayeon, who never responded to reporters’ questions, screamed.

The translator on her ears and mouth was quite naturally bringing her voice to life.

It was fortunate that Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, Leeha, and Kijung understood the situation. But what about the others?

“What is that……?”

“Suddenly intruding in a wheelchair… … assassin? No, does it belong to someone?”

“No, but why did the youngest miss jump in-”

“She hugged him……?”

There was only one scene that caught their eyes.

Panicked, Ram Hwayeon, and Ram Hwajung, who jumped into the wheelchair of a man believed to be Korean.

What did it mean?

“This is a scoop———-!”

The cameras and laptop started operating at the same time.

***

“So, let’s drink beer at home?”

“I don’t know. Phew…… let’s go watch a fun movie, Bobae.”

“This girl, what’s the point of calling me out just because you’re bored? Even if I didn’t have that promise today, I had a lot of other appointments?”

While covering her mouth, Bobae picked up a beer can and bumped into Shin Nara.

Click- Clicked- It was then that Bobae’s hand, which was trying to get on the internet and download the VOD, stopped.

“Hey…… Nara?”

“Huh?”

“Do you know what Leeha and Kijung are doing today?”

“I don’t know. How would I know? Cough-”

“Ah, ahh. I see.”

Bobae quickly covered the laptop. However, she was slower than the fencing gold medalist’s dynamic vision.

“Hmm?

“Hmm?

 That, what was that?”

“Huh? W-What is it?”

“The thing that just appeared on the screen. The news article.”

“Nothing?”

“Get out of the way.”

“Ah, it’s nothing- kkak!”

Shin Nara shoved Bobae forcefully. As soon as she sat in the chair and opened her laptop, a picture caught her eye.

It was a picture of Leeha, and Kijung, with Ram Hwajung, and Ram Hwayeon at Incheon International Airport in the background.

『What is the relationship between the Lim Yong Group(Hong Kong name Ram Long) and the Korean gatecrasher?!』

“This… this……”

“Hey, hey, Nara? Maybe something happened-”

Glug, glug, glug, glug, glug.

Shin Nara emptied the 500ml beer can in one shot. Looking at her trembling shoulder, Bobae shook his head.

‘I won’t be able to stop her if she’s like that…… Phew, I wish you would talk to me too!’

While Bobae was feeling sorry for her friend, Shin Nara was already wearing her clothes.

“Let’s go!!”

“Where?”

“Where else! Follow me, quickly!”

Shin Nara and Bobae, who were slightly drunk, scrambled toward Incheon Airport.

After the first meeting, Bobae, who had been exchanging “conversations” with Kijung in her spare time, hurriedly sent a message and went after Shin Nara.

* * *

The world of Middle Earth was still moving even with Leeha’s situation.

“You mean they all agreed?”

“Yes. Although the amount and size of the expeditionary force of each country are still for negotiation, they have all agreed to raise their flag under Your Holiness.”

“Then…… How long will it take to reach a concrete agreement, fernand..?”

“As soon as possible…… we will try to finish the negotiation within a month.”

 “Good. That’s great. When the preparation is complete, you will be the captain of the new continent expedition-”

“No. I am thankful, but I can’t. The new continent expedition includes not simply crossing the sea, but after crossing it, we will also need to establish a headquarters, and destroy the Fragments of the Demon King,including Bluebeard, which is too important for me to take on.”

Fernand was an adventurer, not a trailblazer.

He may be the greatest at breaking through darkness, but his abilities were limited to that.

It could be said that he was the least qualified person for leaving light behind the darkness and making the land he pioneered prosper.

The Pope nodded at Fernand’s resolute refusal.

“I see. Then, is there anyone you recommend?”

“It is still unknown how many talented people will apply. I don’t think it’s a good idea to decide when the new continent expedition members are not yet decided, Your Holiness.”

“I understand. Then, I will leave it to you to discuss the amount of aid for each country. In the name of Ahlo, who have brought you to me, try to gather people who will share the purpose of New Continent Expedition.”

When the Pope finished talking, white light radiated from Fernand’s body.

And at that moment, new post was updated on Middle Earth’s official website.

A short phrase that can be interpreted differently, but no one disagreed about one thing.

『Phase 3』

A new chapter in Middle Earth had begun again.

(To be continued…)
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 “Please get on, director-nim! Block, block it! Make it disappear!”

Jachung hurriedly began to command the bodyguards and attendants.

While Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung were guided and moved, Leeha and Kijung were also forcibly (?) dragged by their hands.

“W-wait a minute- why am I-”

“W-who’s pushing my wheelchair?”

“The wheelchair won’t roll!”

The physical struggle did not last long.

As soon as Jachung’s skillful command began, the traffic line from the airport to the vehicle was organized in an instant.

After Ram Hwajung ran to Leeha and hugged him, they were all able to board the reinforced van within 5 minutes.

‘Van? Isn’t it almost like a limousine?’

The huge vehicle was perfectly tinted, so the inside could not be seen from the outside.

The driver’s skill to get out of the airport as soon as the door was closed was also not normal.

“I’ll take you to the inspection site right away.”

“Okay, do that.”

Jachung looked at the passenger and said. Additionally, two attendants and bodyguards each sat on the last row, Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung sat in opposite seats next to the door, and Leeha and Kijung sat opposite them.

In other words, Leeha and Kijung were placed in the car with the most important people related to the Ram Long group’s trip to Korea.

“Huuu…… I don’t like going around to Asian countries like this. Wasn’t it surprising?”

Ram Hwayeon tucked her auburn hair behind her ears and fanned her hand.

It wasn’t just because of they were Hong Kong’s largest chaebol group.

Needless to say, their looks played a part.


“Ah, oh- what is this…”

“Haha, that was intense- our first meeting. N-nice to meet you.”

“Huh? Come to think of it, I thought you were an assistant, but aren’t you the master of Byulcho?”

“Yes, it just…… happened that way. Oh, long time no see, Ram Hwayeon-nim, Ram Hwajung-nim.”

Kijung was getting intimidated next to Leeha.

The difference between Middle Earth and reality in terms of class was much heavier than he expected.

“Where would I get an attendant? I’m not like you.”

However, it only applied to Kijung. On the contrary, Leeha felt more comfortable.

Hearing that, Ram Hwayeon quickly nodded and changed the topic.

“Hey, by the way, this is what you meant by uncomfortable? Are you very uncomfortable?”

“Huh? Hmm- it’s numb. My entire lower body.”

“Huh…”

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha’s legs with a curiuos expression.

Her eyes were so wide that even Kijung, who was next to Leeha, could see Leeha for a moment.

If Shin Nara was different from ordinary women, Ram Hwayeon was different in another meaning.

“Can it be fixed?”

“Yes. The doctors said that there was a chance if I had surgery. Ah! It will be much easier thanks to you, Ram Hwayeon.”

“Indeed… So that’s why you’ve been playing Middle Earth nonstop without logging out. It wouldn’t be too much to cash in on that huge growth tax. No, didn’t you collect it already? Isn’t the settlement money from Castle Dale not enough?”

“That’s not it. Since it is a surgery in Germany, it would cost at least two billion won, I don’t have the specific estimate, but the cost should have risen over time. The difficulty of the operation must have increased.”

“Is it a famous doctor?”


“The hospital said that they would write a letter of recommendation, but I don’t know. All I can remember is that it is in the biggest hospital in Germany. I think they mentioned Heinrich-.”

Ram Hwayeon calmly asked, and Leeha also calmly answered.

“Heinrich…”

Ram Hwayeon’s expression made a slight flinch, which Leeha caught but did not pay attention to.

‘Well, that must be the natural reaction.’

However, Leeha could not figure out exactly what she was thinking.

“Cough! Thanks for coming out anyway. No, isn’t it only natural for you to come out?”

“What are you talking about?. Isn’t my time precious too?”

When Leeha shrugged his shoulder, Ram Hwayeon smiled.

Seeing Leeha’s face made her smile. It was a smile that stemmed from more than a simple joy.

“-Therefore, these area is an international business district, and urban planning is already planned, so there is a proposal to approach it as a luxury business hotel rather than a recreational resort. If the director makes a decision-”

“So, so? You killed all of the Demon King’s agents? Did you also get an achievement?”

“It wasn’t bad. I didn’t do it alone anyway. As you already know-”

Leeha looked at Ram Hwayeon, then looked beside her.

A girl with blue-black hair sat next to Ram Hwayeon.

Perhaps it was because of her black hair, unlike her blue hair in Middle Earth, her calmness and coldness were more difficult to distinguish.

However, it was only a feeling related to the impression, and in the eyes of the girl looking at Leeha, the heat that offset all the atmosphere rather erupted.

“-Ram Hwajung also played a big role.”

“It’s because of oppa.”

“Huh, what?”


Noone could understand Ram Hwajung’s words which left out the most important part of the sentence which was, ‘If it was someone else I wouldn’t have gone so far.’

Ram Hwayeon nodded her head with a bitter smile when she understood her sister’s words.

“Tsk, there are benefits to hard work. At the very least, Hwajung and our guild should be part of the new continent expedition. Can you take responsibility?”

“W-what are you talking about? I-I am not going to be selecting the members.”

“Anyway, I believe you.”

“……Director-nim, did you hear me?”

“Yes, I heard you. I have already seen the documents. Choosing between the first and second candidates. I know, and even at this time, I am still monitoring the mood, so don’t worry.”

“Yes, I understand.”

Her ‘don’t worry’ had the same nuance as ‘don’t interrupt me at this precious time’.

“Ah, come to think of it, Ram Hwayeon, weren’t you focusing on Middle Earth? I don’t know- well…… I have seen articles before.”

Leeha had the same question as the reporters at the airport, but with a different intention. And Ram Hwayeon was someone that knew the difference well.

“You know it. Then I guess you can think of the reason. How is it?”

She kept smiling ever since she got into the van.

Like Ram Hwajung, her atmosphere was quite different just because of her hair color in Middle Earth and reality was different.

After looking at her for a moment, Leeha opened his mouth.

“Hmm……. It must be obvious. In Middle Earth, Hwahong owns 6 castles and cities. It must have a huge cash flow of profits. What is the breakeven point? I think you’ve already broken even. In recognition of the group’s achievements, did you gain another… authority?

“Nice, oppa.”

Clap, clap, clap.

Ram Hwajung clapped her hands, and Ram Hwayeon didn’t bother to answer and only smiled.

In such an atmosphere, Kijung only played with his phone pretending like he was not there.

Kijung would have jumped up if he knew what Leeha was talking about.

“Then where should we go now? Ha Leeha-nim.”

Jachung’s voice dampened Leeha’s excitement.

It felt serious.

In Middle Earth, he was quite close to Leeha and got a lot of help, but the feeling in reality was different.

He truly was a high level manager of a huge group of company.

A private teacher and aide who marks Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung 1:1.

The force emanating from his absolute ability to handle tasks, and the sleek suit that did not look like a middle-aged man, were enough to make it difficult for Leeha.

“Ah, yes- Jachung-nim, hmm…… I found a place.”

“Where! hmm- what, this?! Isn’t this a guide?! A steak restaurant?”

“W-we have to go to a place like this at least! I have been looking for a long time- no, can you give it back?”

“Heng, it’s okay. I don’t need any of this!”

Ram Hwayeon tore the guide she snatched from Leeha to pieces.

Leeha’s eyes went wide.

“I could eat something like this everyday. I want something better. This is not what I want Ha Leeha.”

Leeha’s whole body slouched.

Seeing her provocative attitude, Leeha changed his mind immediately.

 “Good. Good, good I know what you want. You won’t regret it, right?”

“Do you think I will regret it?”

“Okay. Kijung!”

“Oh, ohh?!”

“Let’s go to the neighborhood to eat tteokbokki. With a lot of yaki dumplings.”

It literally meant to guide them to places where people can eat. Ram Hwayeon and Ha Leeha were definitely people who understood each other.

‘Get me off…… I will take the bus!’

Kijung, sitting next to Leeha, was sitting in a seat of thorns.

***

“Auntie, one order of tteokbokki-”

“Shh, shhh! You kids, leave.”

“Whose inside?”

“You will get in trouble if you ask things like that! Leave!”

The lady at the tteokbokki restaurant waiting outside the store quickly kicked out the approaching elementary school students.

The small tteokbokki restaurant, less than 5 pyeong, was all occupied because Leeha’s group rented it out.

Not to mention the overwhelming physique of the two bodyguards standing in front of the entrance…… the auntie at the tteokbokki restaurant, not knowing who they were, did her best to protect the kids.

“Hmm! Spicy! But delicious! What’s this!? Is this sold in the night market?”

“Water.”

“Cough, it’s a bit of a stretch to call these ‘dumplings’. Compared to xiao long bao-”

“You’ra talking about xiao long bao while eating 300 won yaki dumplings. Now, water here. Tteokbokki is delicious even if you eat it with pickled radish and kimchi.”

In that small store, Leeha and Kijung were like the owners and hosts. Watching them empty the delicious bowl of tteokbokki.

‘But we only talked about Middle Earth…… it we were just going to talk like this, couldn’t we have just done it in Middle Earth?’

It was different compared to when he met Shin Nara. Where do you live? What do you like? What did you do in the past? They talked a lot more about real life.

Leeha wondered if it was because of the distance between Hong Kong and Seoul, but it wasn’t the only thing.

In fact, there was something that Leeha didn’t know. That Jachung had already recited Leeha’s profile.

Ram Hwayeon already knew ‘almost everything’ about Leeha, so she did not ask.

“Oh, Leeha, I am about to be depressed-”

“Don’t talk when your mouth is full. Is that the dining etiquette of the eldest daughter of an international group?”

gulp, chew, gulp, chew.

“Yeah, am I not supposed to eat this way in a place like this? I can’t even eat anything I want outside.”

“Okay, so take it slow. You might get an upset stomach.”

“So, when are you going to get a surgery?”

“When what? I need to have money-”

riiiiing riiiing-! riiiiing riiiing-!

It was then that Jachung’s phone rang loudly. It was loud enough to startle everyone.

“Jachung?”

“This…… It is the chairman.”

“Phew, he can’t even leave me alone even for a second. Please.”

It was a number that only the chairman can reach. Ram Hwayeon took the phone with a rather dark expression.

(To be continued…)
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 As soon as she started talking on the phone, Jachung spoke.

“Is Master Kay doing anything special in Middle Earth?”

“Yes? Ah, of course.”

“It would have been better if you asked us for help when you were fighting against the demon nobles. Isn’tthat so?”

“It would have been- but with Hwahong and Byulcho’s history-”

“What does the past have to do with now? Like this, Ha Leeha-nim is stuck in the middle.”

“Well, that is the case. Haha. Well, if Leeha hyung bridges the gap in the middle, there’s no reason to have enmity between us.”

“That’s right! There are many cases in our cities, so we often have trouble maintaining security, so please visit sometimes, including Castle Dale.”

Leeha was clearly aware of Jachung’s purpose.

Ram Hwayeon’s expression was getting darker.

Even though they couldn’t understand Chinese anyway, Jachung made it impossible for Leeha and Kijung to eavesdrop on the phone call between Ram Hwayeon and the chairman.

Of course, Jachung’s ability to converse with Kijung to expand his network even a little bit was one of his strengths.

*****

“Pheeew……. Jachung, here’s the phone.”

Ram Hwayeon ended her call with her father.

When Ram Hwayeon sighed, and the expression of Ram Hwajung, who was sitting next to her, also darkened.

“What’s going on?”

“It’s work, isn’t it ? Haa…… even if you solve one, another one comes again, and again, and again. Even the same things are bothering me every time in a different direction. Whenever I hear from the chairman- no, from father, I feel very helpless.”

Ram Hwayeon grumbled while poking the tteokbokki with a fork.

‘Well, company work is also work, but if the person giving the instruction is your father and head of the group…. It’s understandable.’


Leeha and Kijung were a little surprised to see an expression that could not be seen from her, who always boasted of steel-like hardness.

“Ha Leeha, do you have this kind of worry?”

It was a question she asked without any expectations. Leeha thought after hearing Ram Hwayeon’s words that sounded like a complaint.

“Yes. I think I do.”

“What?”

Still, Leeha, who had more real life experience than Ram Hwayeon, could be of some help to her.

Not only Ram Hwayeon, but also the other’s eyes were also focused on Leeha. Kijung was surprised and Jachung was intrigued.

“Oh, eong-ah, what are you talking about? How could petty people like us know what big people are doing-”

“That’s not true, Kijung. This…… this doesn’t have anything to do with having a lot of money or being poor.”

Kijung tried to stob Leeha from talking, but wasn’t successful.

Leeha’s voice changed. Calm and a little slow, his voice began to resonate in the restaurant.

“……So…… Ha Leeha, you have this worry too?”

It’s not just the worries of youth.

This is another name for ‘sense of pressure’ that the role of an executive leading a leading conglomerate group has.

Leeha looked at Ram Hwayeon and replied with a smile.

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

“Huh?”

“We only met in Middle Earth, but I think you know a little bit about me. Especially when it comes to my shooting. Right?”

“Uh, yes, that’s right.”

Shooting all of a sudden? However, whether or not Ram Hwayeon tilted her head, Leeha continued talking.


“Do you think I hit 100% every time I shoot?”

“Almost…… right? It wouldn’t be an exaggeration to say that your performance at a particularly important moment is almost 100%.”

“Kek, no. There were times in Middle Earth, as well in real life, when I couldn’t hit a rabbit that was only 40 meters away.”

“What? You?”

“Yeah.”

Hearing her confirm, Leeha laughed lightly. That’s right. Ram Hwayeon’s low response would be another “pressure” toward the Leeha.

Like the pressure to something that comes from the expectations of others.

“Shooting and hitting…… No matter how one does it, a hit this time does not guarantee a hit on the next one. Just as Ram Hwayeon said, I am bothered in ‘similar issues every time in different directions’. Thinking about that makes me feel very helpless. Even if I do it again and again and again, I feel uneasy…. I ask myself, ‘Did I really grow? What has changed between then and now?’. Guessing that it won’t be as difficult again next time I aim for the target than it is now……”

Leeha spoke as he looked at Ram Hwayeon, but at the same time, he was talking to himself.

As the title ‘perfect sniper’ hung over his head, the weight of one shot got heavier as he pulled the trigger.

The things that Leeha had been through in his life.

Although it was only hands-on training, he had the expression of a lonely sniper, who had always been alone on the battlefield without the presence of anyone he could call a ‘comrade-in-arms’.

“Then what do you do? Every time.”

Ram Hwayeon asked.

From the time Leeha spoke, there was silence in the restaurant that had become quiet, enough that made even the attendants and bodyguards control their breathing.

Even in that situation, Leeha did not immediately open his mouth.

A little more, to add flavor to the answer, like steaming rice.

And finally, he answered Ram Hwayeon’s question.

“I am grateful for the helplessness.”

It was something that no one around expected.


It was like a language that even Kijung, a Korean, could not understand exactly. It was only natural for Ram Hwayeon to fiddle with the translator in her ear while Kijung tilted his head.

“……Huh? Grateful?”

“Yes. The translation should have been correct. At those times, I am grateful.”

“That- what…… do you mean?”

“Because of the feeling I get when my shot hits after feeling helpless. I can be happy when the next shot hits again. If I didn’t feel helpless or pressure, I wouldn’t feel happiness when the shot hits. What kind of pleasure can a person who had just done what he felt he could do feel? Right?”

“Are you talking about the sense of accomplishment when you are recognized?”

Hoooo…….

Leeha took a deep breath and shook his head.

“It is different from a simple sense of accomplishment. That is just doing something that lives up to your expectations! Rather, it is more of a fundamental feeling. Can I call it the feeling of being alive? Regardless of the expectations of others, I feel like I survived…… well, something like that.”

“That…”

Hearing Leeha’s words, which seemed like a zen dialogue, Ram Hwayeon let out a breath.

She thought about it, and realized that it was not a feeling she would understand unless she experienced it herself.

Leeha also knew that, and he wanted her to realize that she didn’t need understand it right now.

So, he evoked the atmosphere with a lively voice.

“Then, Ram Hwayeon-ssi! What do you need right now?!”

“What do I need?”

“Pahaa——- take a deep breath and relax your back. Come on, come on, relax your back!”

“What?”

Looking at Leeha’s bright smile, Ram Hwayeon put on an absurd expression, but that soon disappeared.

It was a kind of secret that Leeha told Ram Hwayeon.

The negative emotions that anyone can feel, such as the struggle to be recognized in life.

How could they get rid of that feeling?

What could be done to remain as yourself?

“Anyway…”

Hu, ha, hu, ha!

Watching Leeha acting as if he was melting while taking an exaggerated deep breath, she burst out laughing.

Looking at Leeha and Ram Hwayeon, Jachung nodded slightly.

‘Indeed……. There are a thousand people who can give the young lady advice about work, but none of them can help her like Leeha would. She needs someone that could help her mentally, and someone who could hold her center…. As expected, Ha Leeha is a person the group needs.’

Click- Jachung carefully plugged in the recorder in his suit pocket..

‘I must share this conversation to the president.’

It was then that Ram Hwayeon, who was agonizing alone between the playful Leeha, flustered Kijung, Ram Hwajung, and Jachung who were looking at them warmly, jumped up.

“Jachung!”

“Y-yes! Director-nim!”

“How long are we staying here?”

“As per schedule, we will be leaving tomorrow afternoon, but-”

“Change the schedule. I have to go back.”

“Right now?”

“Yes. Father- no, the chairman is leaving tomorrow, right? Before that-”

Bang-! Ram Hwayeon hit the table with her lightly clenched fist.

“- I have to negotiate.”

“……I don’t want to go.”

“What, Hwajung-ah?”

“No.”

Ram Hwajung pursed her lips and stood up carefully by Ram Hwayeon’s side. Kijung was confused, but Leeha understood Ram Hwayeon’s decision.

“Anyway, your momentum is amazing..”

“Hmmp, of course. Speed is of the essence! Then, Ha Leeha, next time-”

Let’s go! Let’s go!

Get out of the way? Attaque Simple, coup droit!

Pak-!

Pababang, there was a commotion at the entrance of the restaurant.

“W-what is going on? Who-”

“Ha- Ha…… Leeha-ssi!”

It was Shin Nara who made the two large bodyguards flying(?).

A nimble body that held a single tree branch that wasn’t even thick. There were only a few people in the world who can beat her with just that.

“Na…… Nara, na- Nara-ssi, why are you here…?”

“Huu…… Huu……”

A fencer at that level was looking at Leeha.

Behind her, Bobae mouthed to Kijung, ‘Do something, I am going crazy’.

*** “Is this why you canceled our appointment?”

“Uh- no, t-that- just listen to me for a moment.”

How did she know? He didn’t even need to ask about it.

What was important was that she knew. While Leeha was about to answer, Ram Hwayeon approached with a snort.

“The lady from the Sacred Knights?”

“Please don’t call me that, Ram Hwayeon-ssi. I am Shin Nara, the national fencing representative of Korea.”

“Oh my, then please stop calling me Ram Hwayeon-ssi, okay? I am Ram Hwayeon, head of the New Business Development TF Headquarters at Ram Long Group Headquarters in Hong Kong.”

The eyes of the two women created sparks in the air. However, it could be said the timing was a fortune among misfortune.

“Thank you, Ha Leeha. I’ll go with ‘I’ve achieved everything I’ve achieved.’ See you in Middle Earth!”

“Oh, okay- yeah.”

Ram Hwayeon lightly bumped shoulders with Shin Nara and stepped out of the restaurant.

While Leeha was flustered looking at them, Ram Hwajung quickly walked toward Leeha.

Shin Nara tried to stop her but it was already too late.

“Wait! Ram Hwajung-ssi, what are you-”

“Goodbye, oppa. See you next time.”

After that, the blue-black haired girl wrapped her arms around Leeha.

Everyone inside the restaurant stopped moving after that bold embrace. Only Leeha’s arms uncertainly floated in the air.

“Cough, young miss. We need to go. Although this is Korea, there are still many eyes.”

“Yes.”

Jachung, who came to his senses, quickly took Ram Hwajung, but Shin Nara’s eyes were burning.

“Let’s go back!”

Yes!

At Jachung’s words, the attendants and bodyguards rushed out.

Even after the bus-sized van started and left, Shin Nara, Bobae, Leeha, and Kijung were only able to stare at each other’s eyes inside the restaurant.

“U…… Uh……. Nara-ssi?”

“D-do you like tteokbokki?”

Those were the first words Leeha managed to utter.

(To be continued…)
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 “Jachung, call Pung.”

“……Are you talking about the second young master?”

“That’s right.”

Out of the 4 sons and 3 daughters of the head of Ram Long group he was the 2nd child. Ram Pung.

The Ram Long group’s path to royalty, which made the children’s education survival of the fittest, was a situation which made the siblings recognize each other as rivals and enemies.

In other words, except for Ram Hwajung, who had no interest in business, all of Ram Hwayeon’s siblings were not on good terms with her.

Even in the midst of this, the second child, ram Pung, who was two years younger than the first child, Ram Hwayeon, was the only sibling with a neutral attittude with her, excluding Ram Hwajung.

“Pung.”

Pung: Hao! What’s up? Why did my dear noona call?

“Isn’t Dr. Heinrich the guy you brought from a German hospital a while ago?”

Pung: Huh? What are you talking about all of a sudden? You didn’t even say hello?

“Is there another person with the last name Heinrich in Germany with a world-renowned name who can do a surgery on nerves and spine, which costs 2 billion won?”

Pung: ……There’s none. It was so hard to bring him and his staff. Isn’t that enough to say that you’ve already done your research?

The reason for Ram Hwayeon’s frown after listening to Leeha’s story was not because she thought he was ugly for being disabled.

It was because the words uttered by Leeha were words she had heard at the executive meeting.

‘No way…… director-nim……’

Jachung, who sat across Ram Hwayeon, had a hard time managing his expression.

Being neutral didn’t mean being friendly. It just meant that they were close enough to make a deal.

In other words, whenever Ram Hwayeon asked for something, she would need to listen to Pung’s request.

She had to give something!


‘No, it wouldn’t be a losing deal if we could make Ha Leeha-nim completely ours- I really want to say that-’

Jachung’s expectations mixed with worries became reality with Ram Hwayeon’s next words.

“Get me a schedule with Dr. Heinrich. For a paraplegic patient. They have no sensation below the waist and cannot move. Let’s do a thorough examination at the hospital after you schedule it.”

Pung: Pfft! Didn’t I just tell you that I had a hard time getting him? It is no exaggeration to say that he is currently the busiest person in the group’s hospital! Not only medical treatment, but also research. In addition, he has to interact with the doctors from mainland hospital. I’m trying to manage Heinrich not at the company level, but at the party level, no matter how much you say-

“Pung.”

Pung: W-what?

“First and foremost. Hold it. Let’s talk in person.”

Pung: Noo-Noona-. Ram Hwayeon hung up the phone.

If Ram Hwayeon was in charge of the discovery of new businesses in the group, feng was in charge of the medical field.

“Jachung.”

“Yes, director-nim.”

“Look for anything that Pung could ask, it there are problems in the medical field of the group, or agenda from the board meeting, investigate every thing. Before we arrive in Hong Kong.”

In terms of current position in the group, Ram Hwayeon was a few steps ahead of Pung.

Ram Hwayeon, who took the lead in the battle for succession, could never just reach out first.

Ram Hwayeon knew that as well.

“Understood.”

Without even looking at Jachung, who lowered her head, Ram Hwayeon rested on her chin and looked out the window.

“……‘Shin Nara’……”

Hearing her words, her sister beside her spoke.

“She’s not a big deal, unni.”


Ram Hwajung’s nose flushed.

“She’s really not a big deal, right?”

***

Kwak-!

Shin Nara took a tteokbokki with her chopsticks without looking at the table.

It was just getting a tteokbokki, but Kijung admired such effortless movement for a moment.

“I don’t know what you’re thinking, but anyway, it was really a meeting to ‘return a favor’. Nara-ssi also knows what happened to the city I was appointed as the lord.”

“That’s right, Nara. It’s a natural human interaction! See? I told you it wasn’t a big deal, you didn’t have to come out and check.”

After the Ram sisters left, Leeha explained with sincerity. Without understanding exactly why he had to explain.

As soon as Bobae supported Leeha, Shin Nara’s momentum significantly reduced compared to that at the beginning.

“Okay. I know you can’t act like such a naughty wolf-”

“What?”

“Ah, no, anyway! So anyway.”

What was it? Anyway, seeing Shin Nara stuttering in embarassment, Leeha was able to breath.

As the overall atmosphere calmed down a bit, she was finally able to ask Leeha what she was curious about.

“Then can I ask you something?”

Something that was on her mind since the beginning. The fact that he had a hunch but had no evidence.

“What is it?”

“How was Nara and Bobae find this place-”

“Wa, waaaaa-! That’s right! Did you all see that? At Middle Earth’s homepage! 『Phase 3!』


As soon as Leeha brought up the question, Bobae waved her hands and took out her smartphone.

How did they get here?

Because Bobae secretly communicated with Kijung!

It was true that the one who committed the crime was the most afraid. Fortunately, among the misfortunes, was that she succeeded in turning Leeha’s attention.

At the words ‘Phase 3’, Leeha and Kijung’s eyes widened.

“Phase 3?”

“Didn’t you know? Kijung ?”

“Ah, I didn’t. When is it?”

“Just before we left here, the community went wild and I looked it up, and there was something like this.”

Bobae quickly accessed Middle Earth’s homepage and pressed the newly updated notice to show them.

『The end is not the end. It will cross the 3’s limit.』

“The end…… isn’t the end?”

“The 3’s limit? What is it talking about?”

Leeha and Kijung tilted their heads. Out of the four, only Bobae, who was the first to hear the news, knew who could unravel the information she had picked up.

“Maybe Leeha-ssi could find out.”

“Me? Looking at this now, I don’t even know-”

“The thing that comes out the most in the community is the ‘3’s limit’, the level 300 cap limit lifted!”

Shwaa-! Bobae shouted and pointed at Leeha.

“Ah…… you mean I should ask Alexander?”

“Yes. The phrase ‘The end is not the end’ is also true. The maximum level is no longer the maximum level.”

“Hmm, Alexander tends to keep quiet about things related to growth, so he probably won’t tell…… most importantly……”

Hearing Bobae’s words, Leeha was not satisfied.

‘That’s one thing…… It could be a secret. However, that can’t be everything.’

Didn’t he already experienced phase 2?

In a way that one sentence can be misconstrued, Middle Earth deceived and misled users to be mistaken.

‘I thought the national war was over, but in reality it wasn’t. If phase 2 is over now, it means that my prediction was correct.’

Some kind of work related to the expedition to the new continent must have been completed.

In other words, Leeha could assume that Fernand reached a certain level of agreement with each country.

“Besides that, there was a lot of talk in the community. What is the limit of 3? And what does ‘the end is not the end’ mean-”

“We have to experience it to know anyway. You can never guess anything in Middle Earth. Isn’t that right, Leeha-ssi?”

Shin Nara cut off Bobae’s words as if asking what she was talking about.

“Huh? Yes. Yes. Because it’s a game that enjoys making things hard for

 its user.”

When Leeha agreed to her words, the corner of Shin Nara’s mouth twitched.

“Leeha-ssi, do you have time?”

“If it’s time…… I do.”

“Since it became like this, play with us. You are fine with that right, Bobae?”

She took the lead in an instant.

The momentum to destroy everything when they arrived was replaced with joy.

Of course, because Kijung was next to Leeha, there was no way Bobae would refuse.

“Auntie! 2 tteokbokki and extra fries please! Do you also like tteokbokki, Kijung-ssi?”

“I like birthday tteokbokki instead of this kind of tteokkbokki.”

Kijung smiled and answered at Bobae’s lively question. Leeha and Nara both shook their heads after the two’s expression.

‘Really..’

‘What are they talking about…’

However, they couldn’t stop Bobae’s already energetic question.

“What is birthday tteokbokki?”

“In other words, it’s 5 tteokbokkis.”

There was a large 川 drawn in Leeha and Shin Nara’s foreheads. The tumultuous Saturday passed quickly.

Whaa—-!

Leeha lightly closed his eyes while watching the blue-green light created in front of his eyes.

It was because he could clearly see what this magic was used almost every time he logged on.

『Kyu!』

“How are you, blaugrun-ssi?”

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

Blaugrunn fluttered and spun around Leeha’s head.

Even though it was a partnership, blaugrun’s action was closer to the concept of a ‘pet’ that still needed protection made Leeha smile.

‘Come to think of it, I need to get some items from Blaugrunn-ssi’s lair. Well, I am not in urgent need of money, I will put it on hold for now.’

Leeha was sure that he would be able to communicate with Blaugrunn to some extent, but it was not satisfactory.

It would be much better to choose the items after being really able to converse in ‘human language’.

“Don’t really have to pick a really good one then?”

『Kyuu?』

Blaugrunn, who couldn’t understand him, shook its head. It was then that a knock was heard from the door of Leeha’s room.

Lord-nim, it’s Paytor.

“Ah! Yes, Paytor-ssi, please come in.”

The city’s general manager NPC, in other words, the steward, came in front of Leeha with a bunch of documents again.

“This is a letter from the capital if Ezwen. Since it is an official document issued by the Vatican, there were instructions to disseminate the contents clearly and quickly under the authority of each lord.”

“Vatican? Give it to me.”

Riiiiip, and Leeha immediately received the letter and began examining it.

From the moment Leeha saw the Phase 3 update, he had guessed the contents written in the official letter.

『Recruitment of members for the new continent expedition』……. The number of people is also limited.”

“It’s not confirmed yet, but-”

They had to go far, but they could not bring a large amount of people. They needed the ability to sail to the ocean and a ship to implement that ability, and consider the materials.

“Hmm. That’s right, because it’s not coastal waters.”

And the ocean wasn’t an ordinary ocean either. It’s easy for an ordinary ship to be damaged even with just a simple storm. Of course, they couldn’t bring a large number of people, so they had no choice but to go through a selection test.

‘The number of people that have been confirmed to come was seven. No, we have to exclude Bailephus, so it’s six.’

Members of the Demon King’s Army Subjugation Team were automatically given the right to participate.

Alexander, Lee Jiwon, Ram Hwajung, Kidd, Luger, and Leeha.

‘Those in the top 10 would certainly aim to participate. Still, it’s going to be difficult for those who were active on the side of the Demon King’s army to come.’

They have already been marked as enemies by the Vatican.

Leeha did not know that their position as the Demon King’s agents would have been lost after they died, but he could guess that their intimacy with the Vatican was negative.

They will not be involved.

‘Then, among the remaining rankers, there were Fei Wu, Petyr, Chiyou, Nara, and Bobae. 5.’

A few people were not listed in the official notice.

However, Leeha already knew that there would not be many.

‘What if we took out 5 more seats in addition to the 6 that had already been confirmed? I heard that Kijung wants to come too. Hmmm……. I can’t put him in, but I have to help him.’

Leeha opened his bag, flipped through his items, and looked at his friend window. Kijung was still logged out.

‘But he didn’t connect? He should have arrived home already. Oh well……’

When Leeha remembered Kijung’s parting words that he would go with Bobae, Leeha smiled insidiously.

If he didn’t log in yet, then the reason was obvious.

(To be continued…)
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 “What is it, lord-nim?”

“Cough, no- this official letter says that since the test is going to be conducted in the capital, they want us to let them know in advance if there are any applicants, right?”

“Yes. The application deadline in 5 days, and they say they will take a test for 3 days.”

“Okay. Please stick this to the notice board in the main street.”

“I understand. And this is the list of major tenants in this city that you requested last time.”

“Ah! Good. Thank you.”

Leeha imagined for a while what Kijung and Bobae were doing(?) and accepted another document from Paytor.

“Let’s see, who is giving our city a lot of money.…”

With an old man’s tone, he flipped through the papers on which it was written, one by one.

Paying a lot of taxes meant good income, and as the city manager, Leeha already learned the know-how from Ram Hwayeon that he needed to ‘especially’ manage them.

“Even if I can’t give them a nice gift, I should at least help them so that their business doesn’t- hmm?”

While recalling Ram Hwayeon’s teaching, a certain item caught his eye.

“Bar 『Kitsune孤』. Does it refer to the ‘fox’? Even the owner…?”

If it was a word that didn’t translate in Middle Earth, it meant that a user set it up on purpose. Not by NPCs.

Besides, isn’t a bar a similar concept to a pub?

If you think of the occupation of the owner Chiyou in Japanese, you could not think of him as a person other than Ranker.

“Paytor-ssi, this Chiyou- are they a stranger?”

“That’s right, lord-nim.”

“In our city……? Oh, since when? Without reporting to me, users- no, can strangers own buildings in our city-”

“That’s not it, lord-nim. Chiyou owned that building a long time ago.”


“Ah! When the city still belonged to Minis?”

“Yes.”

Listening to Paytor’s words, Leeha nodded. And at the same time, Leeha felt goosebumbs running down his spine.

‘No way…… no, there’s no need to think about it that way. I can’t be sure. But if she’s this close-no, it’s not just close!’

It was literally in the center! Leeha didn’t feel good from the time he met her once at the end of the national war.

She had a lascivious charm that hid her insidiousness in her body movements.

A certain scenario flashed through Leeha’s mind like lightning.

‘Does it mean that she’s monitoring me inside my own city? I need to investigate quickly- no, no, no.’

Leeha was about to jump up and run out, gathered his thoughts again.

He knew that Chiyou had enough operation to be active in Gaza City.

So?

Should Leeha chase after her and ask ‘You bitch spied on me, right’? Should he ask her ‘Did you sell my information to Faust when he was an agent of the Demon King’?

‘That’s nonsense. Even if I did, there’s no evidence.’

Leeha’s instinct wriggled. At the same time, Faust’s cornered words flashed through his mind.

-That bitch….

‘He obviously said 『bitch』. His helper was a woman. And was dealing with information…… It was a mistake to think she was an NPC.’

It was possible for her to be a user.

No at this point, Leeha could already draw a conclusion.

‘A bar…… Holy Grill is only a restaurant in name. Just because it’s a bar doesn’t mean it can’t function as an intelligence guild. I need to find out.’

Stepping out now could ruin an opportunity he had.


Leeha was a sniper, not an assault soldier. He had to aim for a one shot, one kill. In order to do that, it is important to make sure that he doesn’t induce her vigilance.

“Paytor-ssi!”

“Yes, lord.”

“This, please find out which guild the person named Chiyou belonged to. If she doesn’t belong go any guild at the moment, find out whether she joined or left any guild.”

“I understand. Lord are you-”

“I will go out for a while.”

Paytor had no complaints and had no questions.

No NPC can lie or decieve Leeha who had the ‘Dignity’ buff.

“Okay, that’s it…… this time, I will remove her mask and put her in front of the nobles and commoners.”

『Kyu』

“Let’s go, blaugrun-ssi.”

『Kyuuu』

Leeha put Blaugrunn on his shoulder and left the office. And his destination.

“Since gathering information is not easy for us.”

The Holy Grill Gaza City branch.

“Chiyou……. She’s the most famous dancer among strangers in the continent.”

Blaugrunn imitated Madam Ju’s expression as she narrowed her brow and became lost in thought.

『Kyuuuu…….』

It was a cute figure that made one want to bite it, but even that figure did not catch Leeha’s eyes.

“Think carefully. Haven’t you seen her before, like when you were chasing after Rising Sun? Or when you were chasing after Shinobigumi.”


“I have never received such a report. But- Ha Leeha’s guess seems reasonable enough.”

Madam Ju nodded and continued.

“If she is, she will have enough connections with the high-ranking officials of Minis. If she got involved in the national war, it would have been enough for her to remain hidden on the battlefield.”

“Right? Right? And she’s a user! No, she’s an outlander! What if she spread her guild people all over the continent? It would be enough to create an information network that

 connects throughout the continent!”

“But the bond between the outlanders is probably not that strong. Actually, even if Chiyou is the ‘hidden hand’ as Ha Leeha-ssi speculates, she won’t get much benefit.”

“Of course not! It’s because they failed! If it had not been for the intervention of the Pope, wouldn’t the entire Fibiel army, including me, have fallen under her schemes? In fact, if Faust and Crowley’s joint forces, which had come all the way from the Marching Plains, had reached it a little faster, the army would have been in danger……

The more Leeha thought about it, the more suspicious Chiyou was.

Faust and Crowley.

It was no exaggeration to say that the two were undoubtably the most famous rivalry in Middle Earth.

‘Right. Even then the two of them worked together. It would be impossible without a bridge connecting them in the middle. I thought it was strange from then on, but in the end I couldn’t get any clue…. Who was it that connected the bridge?’

Can an ordinary user do it?

There’s no way.

But it was highly unlikely for the two of them to receive the same quest at the same time.

In the end, it was most likely that a user who knew them well and had a high reputation asked them to go.

“Then what Leeha-ssi wants right now is-”

“I want all the information regarding Chiyou. How many buildings does she own, how many of them are in a city, maybe a restaurant or a bar? If that’s the case, who are her frequent customers, who are the other outlanders by her side, and so on. I want to know everything about her.”

The things that could be handled simply as administrative affairs were less than left to the butler NPC.

If he asked from the attendant NPC, Paytor, he will investigate using Gaza City’s personnel.

However, Leeha tried his best in that respect as well.

If Chiyou was the ‘hidden hand’, then most NPCs might not be able to catch her, but rather get nothing.

Leeha really had to be fully prepared, even in case a snake popped out.

“It won’t be easy if she’s really the hidden hand.”

“That’s why I’m asking madam.”

“Okay. I would investigate. But- to investigate all of it, with how large the scope is, it will take more than a month. If you want to go through every detail, maybe two or three months? And if she’s really a hidden enemy…. It may take more than half a year.”

Madam Ju wrote Leeha’s request on a piece of paper.

“Okay. We will give you tax rate benefits proportional to the result of the investigation.”

And that alone made Leeha smile.

‘Holy Grill investigated Rising Sun’s secret information, such as their hideout, was investigated in a week to 15 days. But investigating Chiyou’s background takes that long?’

Of course, it must have been set systematically in consideration of her level and ranking, and the influence it would have in Middle Earth, but that was a hint for Leeha.

‘There’s definitely something.’

『Kyukyukyu.』

Blaugrunn, who had moved to Leeha’s side before he knew it, nodded while copying Leeha’s expression.

“Ah, since there’s also the existing tax benefits, can you tell me a few more things as a bonus?”

“Bonus. Are you treating information like some fruit? Huhut, alright. I will tell you.”

Madam Ju frowned lightly, but Leeha only shrugged his shoulders and showed a shameless expression.

If the sales of the Holy Grill was good, the income tax would also be high. And the reduction would also be ‘high’.

‘It’s only natural to get a couple of free information.’

Leeha thought about it carefully and asked two questions.

“The first one is simple. A place where I could shoot monsters above level 210 2,500m away. It would be nice if the monsters were a bit bigger.”

“Hmm, that- well. Okay. Accepted. The next one?”

“The second one might be interesting to Madam as well.”

“Why are you taking so long?”

“About the selection of new continent expedition members. Please tell me what you know about the number of people selected and the selection method. Is the capital still within reach?”

“Kek. In any case…… you’re using us quite well.”

Madam Ju smiled.

Leeha suddenly thought how fortunate he was to have this NPC on his side.

*** “This is crazy. What do you see, blaugrun-ssi?”

『Kyuu.』

Blaugrunn shook his head.

Most monsters over level 200 exist in dungeons.

This is because if high-level monsters appeared throughout the fields in Middle Earth, where the majority of mid- to low-level users are, the difficulty will rapidly rise.

If they appeared in fields rather than dungeons, it would only appear in a neutral area, wasteland, etc., not the land of any country, like the place below, and it would also appear in a very remote place.

In a way, it was a natural consideration, but even this seemed strange to Leeha;.

“Huh, the fact that there’s a monster like this in the field, not in the dungeon…… you have to care about the users. A game that can’t be bothered.”

Leeha laid down on the floor and muttered while taking out the Black Bass.

Leeha was currently in a red mountain range near Radcliffe, where he previously went.

‘But it is too much. Radcliffe hasn’t fully restored yet…… Obviously, if the user lord do not intervene and leaves it to the NPC, it would follow the real flow of time..’

The village of Minis, which was attacked by chimera and Bluebeard for the first time, was about to start recovering as NPCs migrated again.

Compared to Gaza City, it was a place where the original form of the town, such as buildings and walls, remained intact, but it was not yet properly restored.

It was a huge difference compared to the fact that Gaza City, which Ram Hwayeon and Leeha managed and rebuilt, had already been restored.

‘Honestly, if Gaza City hadn’t had Ram Hwayeon, there wouldn’t have been much difference. Phew, just thinking about it makes me dizzy.’

How many hours had it already been since he crossed the border of Minis and climb the Red Mountains?

Leeha and Blaugrunn finally found small dots embroidering the sky in the distance.

“If possible, please tell me somewhere that has large species…”

Leeha opened the scope cap of the Black Bass and inspected the black dots scattered over the ‘other peaks’.

Those hovering in the sky at the peak of a certain peak of the Red Mountains were flying monsters called ‘harpies’.

They were monsters with the upper body of a woman and the wings and lower body of an eagle.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘They live in a group and their level is not low. They give a lot of experience points and the attachments were good, but are said to be difficult to deal with.’

In the case of melee dealers, it would be impossible to attack.

It meant that they had to match the harpies’s rush and counterattack, but it was not easy.

However, it was not possible to tank only with long-ranged dealers or mages.

The harpies have the destructive power to separate the heads and bodies of damage dealers with a single rushing claw attack through a fast flight.

Therefore, unless it was a well-coordinated 5-person party, hunting harpies was something that one shouldn’t dare to do alone.

“But if you look at them closely, Middle Earth seems to be an R-rated game. Isn’t that right, blaugrun-ssi?”

『Kyuuu?』

“still- what is that, the upper body of a harpy is female. That…… huh? In the middle, shouldn’t there be a more cover? With some kind of feather…… just that part…… just, cover it up and then.”

『Kyu! kyuu, kyuu, kyuuu?』

『Isn’t it strange that you care about such things?』

Leeha seemed to hear the voice of Blaugrunn when he was an adult and its face overlapped with its adult form as well.

“Cough! You can’t even speak human language yet, so don’t pretend to scold me. And that’s what I see from here, so I don’t know what it actually is.”

Leeha was a bit embarassed and lifted the Black Bass connected to the stabilizer and took a shooting stance while standing.

Normal harpies have a low level of 170 and high level of 185. Madam Ju’s information was that the level would exceed 210 when the field boss appears.

‘I have experienced it once when trying to catch Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, but this is really ridiculous.’

Scope didn’t allow the shooter to see the target clearly.

If one looked at the distance of 2,500m with the maximum magnification function of 30, it looked similar to seeing the target from 83m away with the naked eye.

People with bad eyesight would have a hard time recognizing faces.

“Much less 2,500m. Blaugrunn-ssi, did you know? The distance from the top of Bukak Mountain to the top of Ingwang Mountainis 1.7km? In fact, it is really crazy to shoot at that distance.”


A particularly huge harpy was caught in Leeha’s scope in less than an instant.

As soon as it appeared, it soared into the air like an aerobatic flight, and showed a pattern of spinning and diving down.

‘It respawned”…. The reason why the notification window did not pop up when the harpy field boss appeared was because its distance from Leeha was that far.

Leeha slowly calmed his breathing.

“Joint Fixation: Lower Body.”

Kiiiing—-

Leeha felt the roots of mana growing from his thighs, hamstrings, and ankles.

He felt getting connected to the earth and being supported firmly.

‘With this, my maximum range is 2,600m. My distance from Harpy Boss Aelo is about…… 2,630…… no, 2,640m.’

The snipe distance was about 2.6km.

In addition, Leeha had to shoot at the harpy at the top of the other peak.

‘The wind is quite strong…. The speed alone is 11m/s. It will affect the trajectory. In terms of trees, the wind direction, and wind speed on the other peak was similar to the current peak Leeha was on. Can it be considered good luck? Tsk, the click needs to be adjusted.’

click- click- click-

Leeha’s carefully moved his hand. In order to not touch the barrel during horixontal and vertical adjustment.

‘Click adjustment complete.’

Hwiiiing,another wind passed over Leeha’s bangs.

Fortunately, the Black Bass’ quest did not require it to be one shot one kill.

It didn’t matter if he missed, as long as it was one-hit kill when he hit the boss. Brushing against it would be the worst shot.

Leeha did not miss the enemy beyond the scope even while feeling the speed and direction of the wind and calculating the trajectory of the bullet.

Because it had been magnified 30 times, even the slightest movement increases the fluctuation of gaze.


If he chased after a guy with the sharp flight and acrobatic movement, he might miss it altogether.

‘I have to be calm at times like this. This pressure that eats away at confidence is the greatest enemy of sniping.’

Leeha remembered what he said to Ram Hwayeon a while ago. What needs to be done in these kinds of situation.

‘Relax the back…… Slowly. 	‘Snipe’.’

Leeha hardened his lower body, lower elbows, shoulder, and the Black Bass was also strengthened.

Current maximum range- 3,640m. The range didn’t just increase. It also meant that the bullet was strengthened and would be sent further away.

It was within reach without a snipe, but there was a reason why Leeha used the skill.

’I need to eliminate the shaking of the trajectory.’

Because stronger bullets were less affected by the wind.

Leeha’s index finger moved very slowly. It was only for a moment, but Leeha already memorized the harpy boss’ movement pattern. When is the surest moment.

‘Once it soared again- that’s right…… come down…… right there.

Five seconds from there again?’

-Haaaaaa——

‘I know.’

Click.

The muzzle directed at Aello, the field boss flapping its wings, spat out a bullet faster than sound.

Even the wind of 10m per second and the distance of 2,500m was within Leeha’s calculation.

With a gap of 5 seconds until the next move, there was no way that Aello could avoid the bullet that flew within 3.16 seconds or less.

It was only after that much time had passed that a smile appeared on Leeha’s face, who hadn’t taken off his shoulder strap.

*** 『You have completed the quest Black Bass’s Seal-4.』


『You have learned the skill – Multi-Warhead Shot.』

『Black Bass’s Seal-5 quest has been created.』

『Kyuuuu-! Kyuuu-!』

“Kek, your partner’s skill isn’t bad, right?”

Leeha shrugged at Blaugrunn in a tone that was half humble and half playful.

The bronze dragon flapped its wings and sat on Leeha’s head.

Hit the target with a single shot from more than 2,500m away.

It’s a distance that most people can’t even get a zero point. Even if they fired ten or twenty rounds, it would be difficult to form an impact group.

“It’s a quest anyway, with 500m and 20 level increments! ‘What is datan〜dotan~? It sounds like some kind of African music.”

Leeha smiled as he looked at the notification window. There was joy in completing quests and learning new skills, but his face was not bright.

『Kyuu?』

“Why? Isn’t it a bummer? Knowing that I one-shotted the harpy field boss, which is difficult for others to even see, from the respawn time we received from intelligence guild, and from a safe distance! I caught it…. But I can’t get the loot.”

Leeha picked up the Black Bass again and looked at the peak across the scope. The body of Aello, who had already fallen to the ground and turned to gray, caught his eye.

‘It’s 2.5km in a straight line, but in order to get there, I have to go down the gorge, and go up that peak again…. Most importantly, it would take more than 20 minutes skill joint fixation: lower body to be released. Haa, it’s really hard to make money.’

Since looting hasn’t happened, the corpse won’t disappear right away, but it won’t last for that long.

“It’s not a location that is saved in a crystal ball, and it’s not like I can use blink repeatedly until I arrived there. Would Hyein-ssi be able to go there in one go?”

『Kyuu! Kyuuu!』

As Leeha muttered to himself of regret, blaugrun hurriedly tried to say something to Leeha.

“Even if you try to speak to me, you know I won’t be able to understand, right? Ah, blaugrun-ssi, can’t you use some magic? Like the last time you used detox and heal, by any chance can you use space movement magic as well?”

『Kyuuuu? Kyuuuu?』

Leeha should have taken a closer look at Blaugrunn’s expression.

He should have tried to understand a little more what the bronze dragon meant.

『Really? Do you want that?』

Leeha didn’t understand it, and just kept on talking.

Blue-green mana slowly gathered into Blaugrunn’s body.

“Then Blaugrunn-ssi over there! Loot it quickly, and then-”

『Kyu, kyuuu.』

Blaugrunn smiled as he interrupted Leeha’s words.

『Okay, I will send you there.』

It was at that time that Leeha’s body, unable to properly check his skill window or the quest window, disappeared.

Shhk-

Leeha reappeared on the other peak 2.5km away from where he was located. Leeha felt a little dizzy, but was flustered by the scenery that changed and the unfamiliar voices that surrounded him.

“Kirururut! I-it’s a human!”

“Kirut, kirururut! Where did this human come from?”

“Huh? Oh?”

Flap- flap-!

The harpies squawked, while using human language.

The size of the harpies that flew and soared into the air was more than 2m or more.

They looked liked dots from 2.5km away, but they were actually bigger than the user would have wanted.

“Kyaaaa— take your foot off our mother, you lowly human!”

“kirit, kiriririt—impudent human!”

“Uh- w-what, now, wait a second, harpies!”

Leeha saw what spread under his feet like a carpet. It was, of course, the corpse of the corpse of the harpy field boss, aello.

“Hurry up and get out of here, you lowly human!”

“I-I also want to leave, but my l-legs-”

Joint fixation: lower body cannot be canceled for 20 minutes. As Leeha remained unmoving, the harpies’ expressions became even more ferocious.

“Kiyaaaaa一! This is why men! Only know how to tell sweet lies!”

“All men are enemies after all! All men should be killed, regardless of race!”

“That’s right! He must have hurt our mother! kiririrt——!”

Flutter, flutter!

The harpies flew a little further into the air.

There were 14 of them!

Leeha, the person involved, knew best that he would not be able to move even if he grabbed and ripped the roots off his body.

“No, that- it is true that I hurt your mother-”

『Kyuuuu? Kyuuuu?』

Blaugrunn smiled innocently and moved his wings from Leeha’s shoulder.

“How are you, I did well, right?”

“Don’t smile like that! Bring me back! I’m not in a situation where-”

kaaaaa

Leeha cried out, but his voice couldn’t spread properly.

The moment the harpies’ roar, much louder than his, spread through the air, Leeha had no choice but to make a move.

“-daaaamn it, what can I do when I can’t even move! 『Soul Link』! Koma, kill them all!”

『Sould Link skill has been activated』

『Your soul mate will be summoned for 30 minutes.』

『The current level of soul mate is level 66.』

『100% of the user’s level will be added.』

『The current level of the enhanced sould mate is 241 .』

Kkuooooooo————–

As soon as Koma appeared, it set its body on fire. Red mana gathered in front of the Brown bear’s chest.

Thanks to Koma’s big size and roar, the spirit of the harpies rushing toward Leeha slowed down.

Leeha did not miss their hesitating motion in the air.

Leeha put the Black Bass on his back and quickly took out an item from his bag.

“Blaugrunn-ssi! You will really get scolded if you play around like this next time.”

『Kyuu! Kyukyukyukyu!』

『What are you talking about! You’re the one who asked to be moved!』

Seeing Blaugrunn’s cheeks puff, Leeha laughed.

Of course it was a joke. The attitude of a strong person. There were 14 harpies. It meant that there were 14 monsters that were level 175 or below.

It would have been hard to handle for a normal user…….

“I am not flustered! Why?! I’ve been through worse situations than this!”

(To be continued…)
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 “Kiriririt!”

“Kiyaat, kiyaaaat, kiyaaaat’——!”

“Now that I’m here, I don’t know if this is good or bad but-”

Leeha lifted the item he had taken out and pulled the trigger.

“-anyway, let’s go, Koma!”

Kuooooo—-!

The flamethrower made from Blaugrunn’s remaining dragon heart lit up again, and Koma’s fireball cut through the air along with the flamethrower’s flame.

“Kkiriririt—–!”

“Kyaaaaat-! D-dodge! That’s dangerous!”

The harpies, who raised their claw and dived at high speed, hurriedly shook their wings.

The monsters’ instincts were at least accurate.

The flamethrower’s damage was 3,000 per second. It’s range was 70m.

Koma’s fireball’s single target damage was 18,000. And it’s area of effect damage was 10,000.

This was not a level which monsters that were around level 170-180 could handle.

“You’re too late!”

Baaaaang

– they had no way for the harpies to turn back once their body accelerated!

Leeha and Koma caught 9 harpies with just one attack. Leeha’s experience points rose rapidly.

Around the time Leeha left the Holy Grill and was about to go to the red mountain range to turn the sky red, a pair of man and woman were looking around near the border of Minis.

“Is it here?”


“That’s right. Oka-san.”

Chiyou and Sasuke were in a dense forest area that was not suitable for Minis, which had flatlands as the majority of its terrain.

“Hmmm, they said they were drifters, so they only go to strange places. Still, to live up to their names, shouldn’t they go mainly to big cities.”

Step, step, as they walked a little further, stepping on dirt and leaves, something suddenly fell from above, and appeared in front of them.

“Chachachan! Were you surprised?!”

“……I knew you were there a while ago.”

Falling while bungee jumping from a tall tree with a rope tied around his ankle.

When Chiyou’s reaction was not as he expected, the expression of the user dressed as a clown darkened.

“eeeeng, what? It’s not fun, not fun! People who aren’t fun must die-”

“Stop.”

The moment the clown user was about to take out his dagger from his pocket, Sasuke, who had been by Chiyou’s side, was already behind him, holding his a shuriken.

“We just came to see the vice-leader of the Midnight Circus. I am sure I sent a message in advance.”

“Uhihit! Not everyone can meet him! We are clowns selling dreams and hopes! We will serve you with a low ticket price of 100 gold!”

If it was 100 gold, it was equivalent to about 10 million won. Of course, it was a small amount for Chiyou, but her expression turned dark.

“Stop making silly jokes. Before I get upset, can you tell him that Chiyou from Shinobigumi has come for business? Right now.”

Startled. At the mention of the name of Chiyou, the upside down giggling clown stiffened.

“Eeng? Chiyou-”

“Buhihi, right. Right, that woman is Chiyou.”

Step, step, step. Another voice dismissed the commotion. The clown hanging in the air shouted after confirming his identity.

“-vice-leader!”


“Tsk, you’re trying make me lose face! It would be more fun if I fed you to a lion, fuck off!”

“Uhut, yes, yes!”

The clown, who had been hung upside down, grabbed the rope, and climbed up quickly, and disappeared from sight.

Chiyou and Sasuke only smiled after seeing the clown approaching through the darkness.	.

“Long time no see? How can I contact you when you’re so far away?”

“Ukyahahahak-Kwe! Why would you contact me?”

Chiyou raised her small white hand and gently greeted Petyr, but he only smiled and pretended to spit.

“I don’t know why you’re being mean again. I told you I would contact you if there’s something good.”

“Something good? Uhahat! Something good? Don’t you think it’s comical that I am a part of a traveling circus? I am completely aware of what happened with the de~mon~king’s~ar~my! The demon king’s army you encouraged me to ‘join’, uhihihit! Was that a good thing? If I listened to you, my head would have exploded too, don’t you think?”

At one time, Chiyou tried to get support from Petyr and the Midnight Circus, who were difficult to deal with, against Faust.

Fortunately, they were able to remain out of trouble because Leeha ended the situation without them becoming an agent of the Demon King.

“Cough, still! I said I would call you again if something good happen next time. How can there only be good things? That is that, and this is this…… That’s how you can grow and make a name for yourself. doesn’t it?”

“Uhihihit! Stop talking nonsense, just tell me!”

When Petyr cut off Chiyou’s word, Sasuke’s expression hardened.

The reason why the two of them went together was because they weren’t able to find Midnight Circus’ tent.

‘I was going to use this opportunity to do some marking, or location checking…’

Petyr was also an assassin with habits ingrained to his core.

It was only natural that he would never let outsiders into his hideout.

‘Hoooh, anyway, this psycopath is annoying to deal with.’

Chiyou was also in a bad mood, but she couldn’t help it.


Because she heard that rankers like Igor and Faust couldn’t log in.

“You must have heard that the New Continent Expedition is recruiting, right?”

“Of course.”

“I need you to join me there.”

“Uhihit, me? I won’t be helping that asshole! Playing clown without getting paid-”

“You don’t need to do that. If you put your mind to it, you have the automatic participation requirement.”

Chiyou smiled and showed her white teeth innocently. Kilkil, Petyr, who had been giggling, asked with one big smile on his face.

“What does that mean?”

“It’s the information we got the hard way by recruiting someone from the Vatican. Are you willing to listen, 『 Descendant of the Assassin Hero of the 2nd Human-Demon War.』, Petyr-ssi?”

When Chiyou asked, Petyr was troubled. And after a while.

Ttak-!

Boom, boom, boom-! As soon as Petyr flicked his finger, three small fireworks exploded in the distance.

“Uhuhut, isn’t the welcome celebration too insignificant?”

“You should be thankful to get even this much! Kihihit!”

Petyr was also a ranker, a self-proclaimed clown and a master of assassination.

The vice-leader of Midnight Circus who trampled on Biyemi, who was the strongest assassin in the past, and the ‘descendant of the hero of the 2nd human-demon war’, and despite his strange way of speaking giggling like a psychopath, he had enough judgment not to join the Demon King’s Army.

It was a natural ability for him to recognize the weight of the information Chiyou brought at a glance.

*** “Kiririt, Kiriririt——-!”

“Kyaaaaa——! Kyaat——!”

“……Are you really not coming down?”

“A man! All men must be killed!”

“Kyaaaa—- It’s true that men can only see what’s in front! They don’t look back! All living things that only look in front must be killed! It’s a man’s trait to neglect family for work!”

“Haaa, it’s not like I don’t look behind, it’s just that I can’t turn around…. Besides, a monster talking like a woman that gets neglected by her husband…. Men also have their own difficulties- no, that’s it. Why the hell am I trying to reason with you?”

Leeha sighed as he heard the shouts of the harpies coming behind him.

The five remaining harpies certainly have the intelligence of a monster with ‘human upper body’.

‘Damn it, this is the biggest disadvantage of the joint fixation: lower body.’

It was impossible to move.

The problem wasn’t just mobility.

Since Leeha’s lower body had hardened, it meant that his upper body cannot turn to an angle that exceeded the range of movement of his waist.

It meant that he could only listen to the chatter of the monsters behind his back, just like now.

“Kuooong—!”

Puhwaaak! Koma roared and fired another fireball, but the harpies were able to avoid it if they were prepared for the attack.

“Kiririrt! That bear is male too! All males must be killed!”

“Kyaat, kyaaat!”

The harpies, who avoided the fireball by turning round and round like aerobatics, and shouted once more.

“I don’t know why you hate men so much- ay, I don’t want to talk about it, but you keep talking about it. Koma! Keep an eye on my back!”

“Kuoooong!”

Leeha confirmed the huge shadow cast behind his back and inspected the corpse under his feet.

Aello, the harpy field boss, still remained.

“Now, let’s see what items dropped.”

『Rare Gale of Feathers Cap』

Defense: 980

Effect: Agility +15

Buff – The one who rules the wind

Requirement: Strength 90 or higher

Agility 1,500 or higher

Explanation: The origin of Aello, the queen of harpies, is ‘gale’. Even wind spirits hold their breath in front of the feathers of the harpy doyenne who rules all winds.

Additional Effect: When 5 or more sets are equipped you will learn the skill – Fly

“Oh? A cap. And it’s rare…. Well, even this should be good.”

Maybe it’s because he had seen too many heroic and legendary items.

Even after seeing a rare item, which can be said to be the highest rank item for general users, Leeha wasn’t impressed.

‘That’s the only option. There’s no attack speed or movement speed increase? Is learning fly the only thing that it’s worth using for? If I learn that, I would be able to fly! I think I could go for it…… but I need to get 5 pieces.’

Field bosses appear intermittently with unclear cycles.

It was easy now because Leeha received a hint about the timing from Madam Ju, but it wouldn’t be like that in the future.

‘Most importantly…… I would need to equip 5 parts, so I have to take off this coat. Tsk.’

He had Drake’s heroic coat, so why would he want to wear the harpy set just to learn fly?

Leeha was skeptical about that point.

“I should just change my cap first. Come to think of it, the cap- the one I am wearing came from the boss I killed.”

Leeha took off the cap that he was wearing.

The hat was completely worn out and not even the leather’s original color remained.

It was an item that he got and used after hunting the field boss ‘Brown Bear’, it was also the first item Leeha looted.

‘The Brown Bear back then is different…… from my current soul mate.’

Leeha felt a strange feeling as he felt the warmth behind him.

“Okay! I like the description too! Let’s try using that thing called the wind spirit!”

It had a slightly shorter brim and rounder shape than the hats worn by Browless or Kidd.

But the feather stuck on the side of the hat became a point and Leeha put on a much more stylish hat on his head.

Hwaaa……!

Leeha smiled at the blue mana that wrapped around his body.

‘Okay. Then what about the buff-’

『The one who rules the wind』

Description: It is the reason why the feather that Aello shoots does not slip even in the face of strong wind.

Effect: Wind speed and wind direction is not applied to projectiles

(Effect only activates if combat assistance system is not applied)

Leeha opened the description window of the buff and read it. Meticulously.

“Huh?”

It was only natural for his eyes to widen.

“Uh, ohhh?”

The harpies were still clattering and screaming behind him, but Leeha could not hear any sound.

It was because he understood exactly what the buff meant.

“This is freakin awesome!”

It meant that everything he shot using ranged weapons were not affected by the wind! Of course, it would attractive to other users, but was a useless buff.

‘Because it only works when combat assistance system is turned off! It is raer to find a ranged dealer who would give up their range just to ignore wind direction and speed!’

Why would they turn off the combat assistance system that automatically fires and has accury with the range written in the description of the weapon?

Leeha had seen it before, but it was no exaggeration to say that there very few users like that.

It could only be occassionally seen on rankers or famous outsiders, who used their weapons in real life or were able to regain their range through bloody effort in Middle Earth.

‘But- but to me- this is totally……’

Leeha held the Black Bass while standing.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Great. The wind right now is…… northeast, 11m/s. At this rate, the trajectory will change near the effective range limit. Just like when I caught Aello.’

Since the duration of the snipe skill had already ended, Leeha looked for targets based on the effective range of joint fixation.

It was a rock at the bottom of the peak he was previously standing on.

Where will it hit?

‘Normally, it would hit on the right side of the rock. Judging by the distance and wind direction, that would be the case! But now-’

Click-!

Pulling the bolt, Leeha loaded one shot and then pulled the trigger without hesitation.

Baaaaaang——!

“Kiririrt! Kiririrt!”

“Kyaaa, kyaaa!”

The noise was so loud that the harpies flapped their wings in fright and soared toward the sky.

Even before the echoes of the noise ended, Leeha spotted a crack in the middle of the rock.

“……Are you saying I got something like this?”

『Kyuu! Kyu!』

Blaugrunn hovered above Leeha’s head as if congratulating him.

“Kuoooong!”

Koma let out a roar of joy.

“Well then, shall we finish it now?”

“Kuoong?”

『Kyuuu?』


Leeha put on his hat and muttered with a satisfied expression.

“Joint Fixation, release.”

About 20 minutes have passed since he used joint fixation in preparation for shooting the field boss.

After the vines of mana attached to his leg suddenly disappeared, Leeha stretched his ankles in turns.

“Hey, harpies!”

“Kyaaaaat-! Kyaaa-!”

“Kirit, I will kill you, I will kill you!”

“Cough, I mean, if you wanted to kill me, you should have killed me when I was unable to move. I won’t die with just talking. Does it make sense to try to get results by just talking?”

Leeha raised the Black Bass.

Leeha didn’t just sit still before looting Aello’s corpse.

Leeha was not stupid enough to ignore the notification window that popped up while completing the Black Bass quest.

‘I was really surprised…… the expression ‘this guy is alive’ really fits.’

『Black Bass’s Seal-5』

Description: “This guy is alive, the more it tastes blood, the more it awakens. The legendary dwarf placed seven seals on the Black Bass… On the day the right user appears, black Bass will awaken……. The legendary rifle is waiting for a user to wake it up.

Content: Defeat a level 250 monster at the distance of 3500m or more.(0/1)

Reward: ???

It wasn’t the usual 500m and 20-level increase.

The requirements increased by a whopping 1,000m and 40 levels!

As if to say that the 4 of the 7 seals were just the beginning of the test, the difficulty increased drastically toward the second half.

It was to the point where Leeha thought that the living Black Bass increased the difficulty in order to test him.


‘But that’s not the only real surprise. The reward from the fourth and final test of the first half!’

Fortunately, as much as the difficulty was raised, the reward for the fourth and final test of the first half was incredible.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, and Koma. Do you want to see something fun?”

『Kyuuu?』

“Kuoong?”

Leeha looked at the harpies still hovering through the sky. There were five, which was a good number to test.

“I was discharged from the army due to an incident…… And the spacing was weird, so I thought it was an African word. It really hurt my brain, didn’t it?”

『Kyuu?』

“Kuoong?”

What was he talking about? Blaugrunn and Koma tilted their heads.

The Brown bear was twice as large as a regular one, and Blaugrunn was only the size of the Brown bear’s head.

The two beings, red and green, seemed to be in contrast with each other.

“Kek Look carefully. This is a newly acquired skill. It’s not datan~ dutan~!”

Click-!

Leeha pulled the bolt again.

“Kyaaat! A man, all men must be killed!”

“Men are worms! There’s no need for men in a woman’s world!”

“Kirit, kiriririt-! It’s only one shot! Just fly up and avoid it!”

Then, he opened his mouth and pointed his gun and the five harpies flying through the sky.

“One shot…… well, unfortunately, it isn’t just one bullet. Kek, 『Multi-Warhead Shot』.”


Click!

As soon as Leeha pulled the trigger, he felt the recoil of the Black Bass.

Normally, Leeha would not have been able to see the bullet coming out of the Black Bass’ muzzle because the bullet was at its fastest right when it left the muzzle.

But now?

Dukwakwakwa

“Kirit?!”

“Kyat! W-what-”

It was to the point that the effect made the harpies forget their wings for a moment.

As soon as the bullet came out of the Black Bass’ muzzle.

“Puhahaha! It’s multi-warhead, multi-warhead! Multi-WarheadShot!”

The bullet that was divided by the Black Bass’ energy split at the same time and created a fire net.

It was an effect that could only be created by several people shooting in the same direction was recreated by one person and one shot!

『Multi-Warhead Shot』

Description: Even the tyrant of the river, the bass, is reluctant to deal with small piranhas. Their individual capabilities might be weak, but no prey can escape from the attack of a school of piranhas.

Effect: Multi-Warhead bullet(The current number of warheads proportional to agility stat: 27)

(The individual attack power and range of each warhead is reduced by 30%)

Mana: 600

Cooldown: 1 minute

“Bye-bye! I hope you can find a male harpy that could love you in your next life! No, are there even male harpies? Well, it’s not like a harpy can produce asexually…”

Babababang…..!

When Leeha talked about nonsense about Middle Earth’s settings regarding the harpies, the mana bullet split into 27 pieces and ripped through the 5 harpies.

The skill effect reduced the attack power by 30%, and since they were on a similar level to Leeha, the ‘Fearless’ title did not take effect, but the attack power of one bullet was 20,209.

Harpies could not even survive one bullet.

Furthermore, 27 such warheads spread like a net toward the harpies, so it was only natural that they would not be able to avoid it no matter how hard they tried.

“K-Kuooong…”

『Kyuuuu…….』

It was powerful enough to fluster even Koma and Blaugrunn.

“Is this enough to go to the new continent? Ah! Will there be any other good items again?”

Leeha captured all 15 monsters, 14 harpies, and the field boss Aello, by himself.

Naturally, Leeha’s experience bar reached over 40%.

*** “There are feathers, but they are miscellaneous items with no special effects, it seems that it won’t come out unless it’s a field boss. Well, can I loot the leg meat at least?”

The upper body was that of a human woman, but the lower body and wings were that of an eagle.

Naturally, the meat, which looked like chicken legs, could be looted.

『Kyu! Kyuu, chap, chap.］

“Uh, what do you mean chap, chap, blaugrun-ssi…?

Leeha shook his head as he looked at the hatchling. However, it was human nature to do what your partner wanted!

“Okay, then what about 『Grilled Harpy Leg』 with a sauce made of rare top potion? Call?”

『Kyu! Kyu!］

Flap, flap, flap!

Blaugrunn happily hovered over the head of Leeha.

‘The most important thing in feeding for rapid growth is a rare potion or higher. To make food using this as an ingredient several times a day, every day. A person with no money won’t even be able to raise a hatchling.’

The least expensive of the rare potions was the HP potion.

Of course, it was a comparison to status ailments and MP potions, because they were so expensive.

Ordinary users even think that the exorbitant price of the HP potion is made like that to look like a high-end item.

‘If it wasn’t for the demon king’s army subjugation quest, my back would have been bent. Phew.’

HP potions were all made in temples, and all temples on the continent were temples of the god Ahlo, which was the organization under the Vatican.

Therefore, if one was authorized to receive a certain number of potions free of charge from the Vatican, one could get a few rare potions every day from any temple.

Alexander and other users who participated in the subjugation team did not use their authority because they did not use the potion that much, but Leeha tenaciously took it.

‘Middle Earth really is bad. It’s obvious what they are thinking without even looking. They might be looking down on it, but I am different because my job is long-ranged. I’m going to eat all of it.’

Leeha stated that even the reward was made by Middle Earth’s system, or operator, to screw him up.

He did not even have to think about it, it just shows how much he had lived and suffered in Middle Earth.

Even though he grumbled hard on Middle Earth, Leeha’s hands did not rest.

He cut the meat, stuck it like a skewer on a long branch, and grilled it over a simple bonfire with a fire starter!

It was essential to gently turn the skewer so that all sides were properly cooked, and continue to apply the special sauce made by boiling down a rare HP potion!

Finally, when a fragrant smell emanated from the grilled harpy leg, Leeha held out the skewer.

“Okay, it’s done! Blaugrunn-”

『Kyuu!-』

When Blaugrunn was about to fly to Leeha happily, another creature moved before him….

Kuooooooh—!

Pabak, pabak, pabak! Wagu!

“Uh, ohh?!”

Without a moment’s hesitation, Koma ran over and swallowed all the branches that were used for skewers.

He ended up swallowing all of it.

‘Koma? ”

“Kuong”

“Hey, that- not this…. You……

Leeha looked at Koma with a flabbergasted expression.

Koma did not disappear yet because the 30-minute duration was not yet over.

‘Even so…… does he need to get fed too? No, considering that living beings need to eat to grow, it is only natural, but-’

He didn’t know. Leeha didn’t even think about it.

In the case of the hatchling, there was no notification window or alert, so Leeha found a way to it to grow through the intelligence guild, but what about a soul mate?

“Kuong-! kuong-!”

Koma licked Leeha’s cheek with a smile on its face.

Leeha was both happy and flustered at the expression of affection from Koma he had not experienced for a long time.

‘Right, I only call him when he needs to fight and never pamper him. I never called him except for fighting to upgrade the skill rank.’

In a sense, Koma was the first creature in Middle Earth Leeha had affection for.

They were even closer than Alexander and Bailephus, to the point of getting the title ‘Soul Mate’.

“I’m sorry, Koma. I was too indifferent.”

“Kuoooong!”

Leeha became sentimental for a while.

Blaugrunn flew toward Koma with inflated cheeks.

『Kyuu! Kyu!』

“Kuoo, Kuooong!”

Blaugrunn opened Koma’s mouth with his hand and pushed its head toward it.

“Waa?! B-Blaugrunn-ssi? What are you doing? Koma, mouth! Don’t close your mouth!”

『Kyuu, kyuuuu!』

“Kuo- kuoh!”

Even the large distracted Brown bear was taken aback by the action of the little dragon trying to get back the food he had swallowed.

However, he couldn’t hit the dragon that was the size of his head.

“Kuok!”

『Kyu!』

Blaugrunn gave up in the end, taking his head out of Koma’s mouth and hitting the Brown bear with his tail-! Paaak.

Compared to the tail attack of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh toward Bailephus, it could only catch flies.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 385

				
 “Kuooong! K-Kuooong!”

Koma pointed at Leeha, then to himself, and finally to Blaugrunn.

『It belongs to Leeha. Then me. We are soulmates! You are the last!』

It was, so to speak, the ‘sequencing’.

『Kyuu, kyuuu!』

Blaugrunn did not sit still.

He pointed at Leeha and himself several times, and then pointed his little arm at Koma-! And stretched it out.

『Ha Leeha and I are partners! You’re just a pet!』

And Leeha looked at him with an absurd expression.

“It’s been a long time since I summoned it without an enemy to fight, so this is the result…”

Koma and Blaugrunn is a recipe for chaos! Leeha didn’t know whether to laugh or cry at their bickering.

‘Should I say it’s lucky that the two of them don’t fight even though they are hitting each other?’

After concentrating on what to do before Koma spat out a fireball or Blaugrunn spat out lightning breath, Leeha cut another harpy leg.

What was the best way to end a fight?

“Hey! So you don’t want to get any meat? No matter what, we are all one family, so you should get along!”

『K-kyuu…….』

“Kuong!”

“Now, Koma, there are only three minutes left until the summoning is canceled, so eat first! Don’t worry, I’ll leave some for Blaugrunn-ssi as well.”

“Kuong.”

『Kyuu!』


“I don’t know when I can eat my share.”

Leeha shook his head and worked hard to take care of his ‘family’.

***

“Have you not contacted the descendants of the heroes yet?”

“I talked to some, but…… the participation rate is not high yet. Most importantly, since many people live with their ears closed, it was not easy to spread the news, so how many people will gather at this rate……”

“It would be easy to deal with the fragment of the demon king if they were there, but without them, there is nothing we can do. Even at this moment, le is wandering around the new continent in search of Ghibrid and Pyrot Cocri…”

The pope let out a big sigh.

That frustration was also shared with Fernand.

He wanted to officially launch an expedition to the New Continent but the wall of reality was different.

‘There is not enough time to gather the descendants of the heroes of the Second Human-Demon War. Since they have already risen above a certain level, they have blocked all whispers and are only focusing on leveling… they can’t afford to take weeks or even months off. It would be better to take those with skills and items other than just levels- going with the strongest is also the answer.’

Not every job had a hero’s descendant. And not all of the heroes’ descendants were users.

Some people just got lucky and somehow became a hero’s descendant, and some of them have already quit Middle Earth.

And even if they didn’t quit, they would not spend most of their time in Middle Earth, and if they were forced to participate in the new continent expedition, they might become uncooperative, fernand also knew that, so he did not have a lot of options. Therefore, he thought that selecting elite members was the next best thing!

It was Fernand’s suggestion, approved by the pope, and communicated to nations by official documents.

“Then, is the current status for the selection of expedition members okay?”

“Yes, Your Highness. A large number of top outlanders from each country are participating. The agreement on the division of work for each country’s expedition to the new continent has almost been reached, so we will be able to launch it soon.”

“So how did it go?”

“Kraven will provide the ship and navigation, Fibiel will provide navigation and supply, minis will provide supplies and pioneering base construction resources, Shazrashian will provide construction workers and support of relay mana towers.”

It was the result of Fernand meeting the kings of each country.

Since he had the title ‘Pioneering King’ and the name of the pope was added, an agreement was reached quickly.


Nevertheless, fernand’s expression, who was directly in charge of the negotiations, was not very satisfied.

‘We have the cause of killing the fragment of the demon king, but it is clear what each country wants. The reason they keep coming to me ever since the beginning of Middle Earth-’

『New territories and more resources』

From the beginning of Middle Earth, fernand, who enjoyed pioneering and exploring the map, knew very well that each country only acts for its benefit.

“Good. Very good. As advised by the ancient dragon…. It’s hard to create a pioneering base in the new continent but once that is done, it will be easier to connect the new continent to the current one.”

“That’s right. Your Holiness. So what’s important now is speed and time-saving. If only the elites and supplies could somehow reach the new continent… Then things will go faster.”

It was also the reason Fernand and the pope did not bother to wait for more heroes’ descendants. It was widely believed that spatial movement was impossible.

‘However, thanks to the person Ha Leeha-ssi introduced to me, we found a clue.’

NPCs would never suggest the way in the first place.

A keyword must be presented to give hints accordingly, gradually leading users to the correct answer.

‘Hyein was it? That was a great idea.’

It was an idea that only a sage could come up with, based on a thorough understanding of space and coordinates.

『Is it possible to move between the current continent and the new continent by building a mana relay tower at a specific point in the Sea of Dawn and another mana relay tower at the new continent’s pioneering base?』

Bailephus nodded to Hyein’s “keyword” to use space movement like a communication frequency.

Even Fernand and Alexander, who were watching from the sidelines, were surprised by the simple answer.

‘Of course, building a mana relay tower in those two places is the assumption when it succeeds…. If we fail, we will become a drifter in the new continent, having to wait for the next expedition without any assurance, as explained in the quest.’

Many elements caused anxiety.

However, in Middle Earth, nothing can be gained without trying.

Fernand decided to trust his intuition and the strength of the expedition.

????: waah, uhihit, fernand! Are you Fernand? Pippo, pippo! Hello? Hello?


It was around that time that Fernand heard an unfamiliar whisper. What surprised him was not the tone of the voice he heard.

‘Shouldn’t everyone be blocked except for the ones that were allowed?’

It was becaus he was curious about the identity of the person who had penetrated even Middle Earth’s system.

???: Don’t pretend that you can’t hear me, it’s no use! Uhahahat, don’t you need heroes’ descendants of the Second Human-Demon War? Kuhit, I am the successor of the Midnight Circus Ringmaster(Leader)!

Fernand: Petyr! The ranked 5 assassin? Petyr: Aha-! Can you hear me? Hey, can you hear me? Kilkil, I knew you would hear me! I want to join! You know how much strength I could provide if I join, right? There will be times when you need my strength other than riding a ship, uhat!

What can an assassin do on a voyage to the new continent?

‘There’s no way to know what comes out of the Sea of Dawn’

Fernand knew it all too well. So it was easy to figure out what Petyr wanted to say.

『When you need strength other than riding a boat.』

In other words, he knew how to exploit Middle Earth’s loopholes.

Fernand: You have proven it by breaking through the whisper block and contacting me. Okay, Petyr-ssi. I will include you as a member of the New Continent expedition.

Fernand smiled. Petyr’s reply was instant.

Petyr: indeed! Pioneer King! Adventurers are different, their courage is great! You’re not even afraid of being in the presence of an assassin!

Fernand: But how did you do this? I’ve tried a few times before as well, how were you able to get past the whisper blocker? Is it an OP item? Or maybe skill? If it’s not too difficult, can you tell me how? If I had known about it earlier, I could have whispered the descendants-

Petyr: ukyakyakyak! You are a very talkative person too! More than me!

The 5th rank, who was an assassin, performed assassinations through Middle Earth’s loopholes.

Was not able to handle Fernand’s talkativeness.

***

It had been more than a day in Middle Earth’s time before Kijung logged on.

In the meantime, Leeha’s level, who had camped in the harpy zone of the red mountains, had already risen.

‘Level 176. No, it’s fast considering my level, but…’

Even while sweeping alone in a hunting grounds that needed a full party of the same level of users, Leeha felt that it was lacking.

It wasn’t even hunting to level up. Because Black Bass’ fifth quest was more difficult than expected.

While shooting to practice, his level went up unintentionally(?).

“Aaaaaagh! 3,500m! It’s at the level where I need to use all my skills from joint fixation to sniping to reach the maximum range! Seriously, I guess this game is on purpose to annoy people. Don’t you think so, blaugrun-ssi? I thought it was going well because I got an item that ignored the wind direction and wind speed… Now I can kill them like flies.”

『Kyuuu?』

“It’s the same with Multi-Warhead Shot. With its deadly destructive power and very short cooldown, I was confident that I would not fall behind Luger or Kidd… but it turned out to be a mana-guzzling monster that I couldn’t even use twice, haaa……”

“Kaaaaat-! All men must-”

“Tsk, don’t bother.”

Baaaaang——–!

Leeha sighed as he leisurely killed a newly spawned harpy.

While looting the miscellaneous items from the corpse and opening his bag, an item came into Leeha’s eyes.

‘Tsk, I need to solve this first.’

Leeha: Kijung!

Kijung: oh, h hyung! You’re still doing that?

Leeha: Of course. Heuheu, why did you come so late? It took more than a day in Middle Earth, so it’s more than 5 hours in reality, right…?

Leeha connected to Middle Earth as soon as he parted ways with Kijung, Nara, and Bobae.

They parted ways in the afternoon and Leeha immediately logged on, and until now he had been dealing with Gaza City’s business and took care of it.

‘But Kijung did not connect to Middle Earth until past 11:00pm, and now he did it……?’

It was enough to put a wicked smile.

Kijung: Cough, what do you mean? I didn’t. We didn’t do anything.

Leeha: Bobae-ssi is not logged in yet… You obviously went with Bobae-ssi. You must have done something.

Kijung: W-what is that interrogating tone? We didn’t do anything. Just-

Leeha: Just?

Kijung: Some drinks.. We had some drinks.

Leeha: Specifically-? Then, are you also drinking in Middle Earth?

Kijung: We had beer, though we didn’t meet to drink beer, we just wanted to talk.

Leeha: Heuheu, what did you talk about?

Kijung: what do you mean, we just talked about this and that…….

Leeha: Sitting~ down. What did you talk about? Tell me quickly. Did you hold hands?

As he whispered, the corners of his mouth naturally rose. Was there anything more enjoyable than hearing about someone else’s relationship or romance?

Kijung: Ay, hyung! Don’t joke around, holding hands.

Leeha: Ohh? Oh?! Then? What next?

Surely? What next? Did you hug? Kiss?

Kijung: Hug, what hug? It’s just, well, we did. Just.

Leeha: What?! What did you do?

The more Kijung evaded, the more Leeha’s curiosity was amplified.

‘What, this bastard! It’s been a long time since he proclaimed himself to be the love monster, but- no way- ’

Even in the midst of that, various thoughts passed through Leeha’s head.

Words like ‘I envy you for growing up as much as I wonder what you did…’ appeared like a thought bubble.

Floating around.

Kijung: It’s just that- Ah, what should I say? We just had a drink-

Leeha: just?

Kijung: It’s just so so.

Leeha: Hey-! Why is a tank so good at hitting and dodging? You would have done well if you were an assassin.

『Kyuu!?』

“Ah, sorry. I suddenly got angry.”

When Leeha suddenly stomped on the ground, blaugrun roared.

Kijung answered Leeha with a single whisper.

Kijung: Kek, I’ll tell you later. Ah, the guild members just asked about the recruitment of new continent expedition members.

Leeha: Ah, right. Are you going to apply?

Kijung: Of course! I have to participate in order to raise the name of the guild. Hyung, how do you deal with this?

Leeha had already given advice to the executives of Byulcho, including Kijung. However, it was at the level of forewarning that this would happen.

Judging from the accurate information he had heard through Madam Ju and Fernand, there was little advantage for Kijung.

(To be continued…)
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 “It’s a tournament-style 1-on-1 match, after all.’

How to survive in the unknown new continent.

Fernand concluded that it was necessary to be strong to survive in all kinds of variables, and decided on the tournament method as a method of measuring that strength.

Leeha: I’ll come and tell you. Wait.

Kijung: Okay. I will be there soon too. But hyung, why is our safe house stored in your crystal?

The safe house, the top secret location for each guild, was stored in several crystals that were old or new.

Leeha smiled as he listened to Kijung’s question mixed with grumbling.

They were only cousins, but their ties were more than brothers.

The first three people gathered at the safe house.

Kijung, tail, and Biyemi. Hyein logged out and other guild members have decided to convey it to Kijung to prevent congestion.

As soon as Leeha arrived, he quickly conveyed the information he knew.

“You say the applicants are going to fight each other? In such a simple way-”

“Kikis, but it makes sense. It would be the simplest, fastest, and easiest way.”

“Hmm… However, there will be many applicants. Perhaps it means that we are too tight to find a more effective way.”

Kijung, Biyemi, and Tail each spoke a word after hearing Leeha’s story.

“That’s right. Like Tail-nim said, there is no time…… However, in terms of matchmaking luck, it will be at least fortunate. It’s just a tournament-style performance check, not necessarily taking the winner. This is not a competition to just pick one person.”

“Then? How many are there, hyung?”

“According to the information I obtained, there are 20 combatants on each of the two ships.”

“Huh? Are they taking 40 people? How small are the ships?”

Leeha shook his head as he listened to Kijung’s question.


That would be a normal thought. However, combat is not the only important factor in this expedition to the new continent.

“I heard the ship itself is huge. But aren’t there various materials and mana towers to go to the new continent? Well, I have to load supplies to make something like a repeater in the middle, and I have to load materials to build a village after arriving on the new continent…. So they said there was nothing they could do.”

“Hmm, hmm, kikis, I get it. So, you mean that the 40 elite members will immediately start searching for the Demon King’s Fragments?”

“Yes. We are planning on doing that.”

“At the same time, you should also play a role in protecting the NPCs while they build the pioneering base. They are going to have a basic battle, but they don’t know what’s going to happen in the new continent…

Leeha nodded while listening to Biyemi and Tail’s evaluation.

As Leeha thought, the executive-level figures of Byulcho were already the people who looked and resembled each other in Middle Earth.

‘Tail said something I hadn’t even thought of. It is important to find and kill the fragment of the demon king, but it is also important to establish a system that will allow space movement…… The current expedition members are offense-oriented, so having someone good at defending would be good.’

It would be easier to devise a strategy if there was someone who could balance the weight in that way.

“Now that it is past midnight, it would be due in 3 days Middle Earth time. Rumors have already spread that only high-ranking applicants are accepted. so there won’t be many people- but the test period is so short that you might end up fighting all day long.”

“Are they trying to test not only our ability in-game, but also whether we could survive for a long time without logging out in real life, and whether your stamina supports you?”

“I guess so. There are only 40 combatants, but if a few people come in and out, there will be a huge power gap.”

“Is the estimated voyage time unknown?”

“Fernand-ssi’s guess is around two months.”

“Two months?! 60 days?”

“That’s the rough estimate. It might take longer.”

60 days in Middle Earth time.

It is equivalent to 12 days in reality. No matter how strong a person is, it will be impossible not to log out throughout the voyage.

It was a situation where it was necessary to focus on navigation while minimizing the power gap through thorough rotation.

“Hmm, 12 days……. I won’t be able to do anything else, it’s just too much.”


“Tail hyung, don’t you have time?”

“I have to take care of the dojang, so… This expedition would be impossible unless you’re a hardcore gamer.”

“Kiskis, no matter how good the rotation is, 12 days is too much. I am not sure about my situation as well. Tsk, it’s been a while since I have teamed up with Ha Leeha-nim.”

Tail said he would not be able to join, and Biyemi is also not guaranteed to join.

Kijung’s expression hardened as he looked at them.

“Huh? The two of you are not going? Keung, it’s a tournament, so it’s unlikely to form a team anyway, but I get nervous when I don’t know anyone.”

“You have to do well. If guild master loses at the start of the tournament, byeolcho’s fame will not rise-”

“Kiskis, I need to see what happens. Anyway, do your best not to leave all the guild members there!”

“I know. I won’t face the rankers from the beginning, am I? No, I, a tanker, won’t even have an advantage against outsiders in fighting 1-on-1 ……

Tale and Biyemi made fun of their guild master by putting in a lot of pressure.

“Kijung, you are not alone. Because Hyein-ssi will be participating as well. Anyway, Fibiel’s Byulcho can’t doze off like that!”

“It’s because hyung is a dealer, but I am a tanker, so it isn’t a good match. Because I lack offensive power-”

“Surprise! This is for you!”

Leeha stopped teasing Kijung and took out an item from his bag.

He didn’t know anyone else, but he wanted to take care of Kijung and didn’t get a chance to do that once.

What Leeha held in his hand was a single-handed sword. Kijung’s eyes widened.

“Oh? A sword?”

“Don’t talk, take it.”

“I changed my sword just a while ago. The option is-”

“Oho, this bastard! If I give it to you, just take it and be thankful~. What are you saying? You don’t want to take it?”


“Hey, I didn’t say that. Hehe. Thank you, hyung.”

How could he not like it? Even Leeha knew that Kijung only tried to reject it once out of embarrassment.

“Kiskis, halihali-nim, that’s too much. What about ours?”

“Cough, highlanders use two-handed swords.”

“I, I will give it to you later.”

While Biyemi and Tail were teasing Leeha, Kijung looked at the detailed explanation of the sword given by Leeha.

“W-what is this?”

Kijung’s expression hardened in an instant.

His head turned slowly towards Leeha. Tail and Biyemi stood around and tilted their heads.

“Is there a problem?”

“What is it, Guildmaster-nim? Kiskis, or is there something like a minus-health option? Is it a cursed sword? Ha Leeha-nim is a little bit mischievous, so there is a possibility.”

Kijung could not answer anything even after listening to them.

Only Leeha looked proudly at Kijung’s surprised expression.

“How is it? Wouldn’t that be enough for a 1:1 fight?”

Leeha also felt awkward, so he rubbed the bottom of his nose. Tears fell from Kijung’s bright eyes.

“Hyuuuuung——-!”

“Cough, if you’re grateful, pay it back later. Hey, hey. don’t hug me!”

Kijung tried to hug Leeha, but Leeha jumped and pushed Kijung away.

“Okay! Eong-ah! I’m going to sign up now!”

“What is it? Kiskis, show us too, guildmaster-nim!”

“Heh, no way! I will have to surprise you later. Uhihihit. This is so awesome!”

Kijung immediately activated his crystal ball, even rejecting Tail and Biyemi’s request to show the detailed information on the sword.

Two days before the tournament registration deadline, another strong candidate was added.

*** ‘Wind direction southeast, wind speed 13m/s, but no effect on trajectory. Distance approximately 3,000…… 3,400…… around 3,430m.’

He even had to save even the blink of an eye.

Even with that small shock, when his facial muscles twitch, he would often miss his target.

Black Bass’ fifth quest, which quickly increased from 2,500m to 3,500m was no easy task.

‘Target acquired…… pattern checked…’

Even if he managed to find the target, hitting it was another story.

Only after checking and measuring the monster’s movement pattern several times, would Leeha pull the trigger.

‘Five steps right…. Move ten steps to the left again, considering the movement time, the target will stop after about 12 seconds……. About 3 seconds delay from the stop before moving again.’

He observed like that for about 3 minutes.

In the meantime, he must not let go of sharp concentration and tension.

For an average person, just looking into the scope for a few minutes would make their eyes feel sore.

7 seconds, 6 seconds, huuu…

5 seconds, 4 seconds, haaa…….

What could be seen in the distance was a moving tree, ‘Cursed Ent’.

Its movement was slow, and the pattern was very simplified and large. It meant it was perfect for practice.

‘3 seconds, 2 seconds-’

Baaaaaang—–!

Looking at one step after another, he predicted the distance the cursed ent would move, and before it could stop, he pulled the trigger toward the expected stopping point.

It was a shot that would have prompted a question about where to shoot, but it was inevitable.

It took 4.1 seconds for the bullet to travel 3,430m.

As long as the monsters were not fixed, ‘Pattern identification’ and ‘prediction shots’ would be essential elements for clearing future quests.

As soon as the bullet was released from the muzzle, Leeha prayed earnestly.

‘Right, please, please, please…’

Of course, it was something he would never do normally.

If he was going to hit the target by praying, please, please, please, he wouldn’t have needed sniper training.

‘Right, right, right!’

Finally, after 4.1 seconds, poook!

“Muk?!”

The cursed ent saw the sudden hole at his feet and swayed his branches.

Looking at it through the scope, Leeha couldn’t help but sigh.

“Haaa…… this is driving me crazy. How would I be able to successfully snipe from 3,500m away?”

『Kyuuuu……』

“I’ve been practicing for almost two days, and yet I could only do this much, does this make sense? Middle Earth is too much.”

『Kyukyukyu.』

『Cheer up.』

Blaugrunn sat down on Leeha’s back and patted his shoulders, he hit it hard, but it wouldn’t boost his energy.

How many magazines did he change during practice?

His stock of brass, which was used to make his bullet, was almost swept, but Leeha did not get any satisfactory results.

‘I need to have at least a 70% success rate to be able to use it in an actual battle. Right now it is only 30%.’

Even so, he only barely managed to raise it by 10%….

Leeha released his joint fixation skill got up from his seat and brushed off his clothes.

“Shall we go? I think it is time.”

『Kyu!』

Leeha checked the time and tied the Black Bass on his back. His destination was already decided.

It was after it was announced that the recruitment of new continent expedition members had closed this morning and that they would start testing right after the deadline.

By now, it was already afternoon, and the tournament had already progressed quite a bit.

“Wah, there’s a lot of people…”

There was no need to find the venue of the tournament.

Because, as soon as he arrived at the capital, a large procession of users caught Leeha’s eyes.

“Fly scrolls for sale〜! Fly scrolls for sale, verified by the Sacred Knights! Don’t watch from the distance, when you can watch in the air〜!”

“Drinks for sale! We sell drinks that taste like cola!”

And the merchant users who were trying to catch a share by the side of such users were also raising their voices.

“If there are this many people here, won’t the exam hall explode?”

Leeha moved his steps and carefully inspected the majesty of the crowded capital for the first time in a while.

If it was like before, he would have been excited, but now he was a decent ‘castle lord’, and his eyes were slightly different from ordinary users.

‘Indeed. That’s how you plan roads. I roughly understand what Ram Hwayeon meant.’

A hundred words were not enough.

How to control the sudden influx of population?

Leeha was able to image the road situation in the capital, castle Dale, and Gaza City, respectively.

In this way, following the procession from the center near the fortress of Aelstock, Leeha arrived near the outer wall. He was able to figure out where the area was more concentrated than the center.

(To be continued…)
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 “So it is being held in the Sacred Knights’ Headquarters! Well, this is probably the best way to prevent an accident.”

People crowded so tightly that there was no room to push in anymore. Floating above them were men in shining armor.

The sacred knights were controlling the onlookers on the ground and in the air.

Leeha stood on tiptoe because he couldn’t even see the location of the stage from where he was standing, but a person soon came to find him.

Shoooook-!

A knight flying swiftly through the air raised her face shield and smiled.

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Ah, Nara-ssi?! You’re not at the palace today?”

“Everyone went out today. Come here quickly! Kijung-ssi’s second round will come in a while.”

“Second round? Did the first round end already?”

“Of course! I think he passed it with ease. Bobae-ssi is also over there, let’s go quickly.”

“Uh, I can’t use fly- Uwaaak!”

Shin Nara hugged Leeha from behind and flew.

It was a terrifying experience for Leeha.

It was because even though he had ridden Bailephus before, he had never experienced pure flight magic before, and it was also because of the hand that held his chest.

Nara took Leeha to a seat closer to the VIP area.

Bobae, who was already sitting with snacks, greeted Leeha happily.

“Hi- Leeha-ssi!”

“Hello, Bobae-ssi.”

“Aww, look who we have here, the dongsaeng is participating in the tournament and the hyung only arrived now, did you hunt a lot?


“

“Please sit here quickly.”

“Ah, yes. Nara-ssi-”

“I have to keep watch. You will be with Bobae-ssi for now, I will come back after work!”

Nara flew again with a confident tone like a career woman.

The place where Leeha and Bobae were was a huge stone protruding from the middle of the castle wall, a fixed stone for the defense equipment directly overlooking the gymnasium.

“Eat this. It tastes like potato chips, and it’s really hot.”

“Can someone who works out eat this?”

“I only eat this in Middle Earth and I don’t gain weight here anyway. Hehe.”

Bobae laughed while chewing on the crunchy snack.

It was one of the benefits of Middle Earth.

“But I guess a lot of people participated? There was a rumor that only experts would come.”

“That’s right. Only experts came. How many people are there in Middle Earth? I don’t know what Leeha-ssi considers an ‘expert’, but there are a lot of level 200 users or higher. It’s also the same for outsiders.”

“Hmmm.”

Leeha took the snacks Bobae gave him and chewed them while looking over at the other side of the stadium.

There were a large number of users who had different assortment of equipments from general onlookers.

“Looks like the waiting zone is over there.”

“Yes. Ah! There, the ‘Heresy Inquisitor’ is also a famous priest. He is Kijung’s next opponent.”

“The guy wearing that strange mask?”

Bobae pointed to a man wearing a bird’s beak-shaped mask.


‘That is Kijung’s next opponent? If he’s a priest, his attack power shouldn’t be much…… That’s normal, but…’

Contrary to what he said, Leeha tilted his head for a moment because he was holding a huge hammer.

“That person over there, ‘Bald Panda’, is amazing. He is someone from Hwangryong and is famous for his nickname so I don’t know his real name. Anyway, I heard that in terms of speed, he’s superior to Pei Wu. I guess he loses in terms of strength.”

“Huuu……”

“Hmm, and on the other side are Toaist Baeju, and Taoist Mu’. They are brothers who are Taoist class, and they are skilled at hunting monsters by giving each other double buffs.”

Many of them were jobs where Leeha could infer what they do and their destructive power.

One-handed sword, long spear, two-handed sword, etc…. However, there were also a lot of jobs that he had never encountered before.

‘The national war was so huge that I did not see them before. Or is it because Middle Earth itself is getting bigger than before?’

There were all kinds of outsider-class users gathered. Such a tournament is also being held in the Capital of Minis, shazrahsian Federation, and Kraven.

‘Except for the six that have already been confirmed, there are 34 spots left. Since we don’t know how many descendants of heroes will appear, the actual number of tournament participants is less than that.’ Of course, for the small number of slots, the competition was bound to be fierce.

“Ah, they’re coming out! Kijung-sssssiiiiiiiii!”*

“I-It’s dangerous!”

Bobae jumped up without fear and waved her arms. Bobae wasn’t the only one cheering.

Hwaaa————!

“Byulcho’s Guild Master!”

“Amazing! It ended in a blink of an eye earlier!?”

“But will it be as easy this time? The enemy is the ‘Heresy Inquisitor’!”

Another man walked out to the clacking noise around him.

A man wearing a bird’s beak mask holding a hammer the size of a child’s body stood on Kijung’s side.

When a man who appeared to be a referee came out and made the two of them aware of the rules again, Leeha somehow couldn’t stand his pounding heart and shouted.


“Kijung-ah, do welllllll———!”

“Kijung-ssiiii, fightiiiiiiing!”

Kijung’s head, which had been focused on his opponent, turned.

“Kkak! He looked, he looked! He must have heard my voice!”

Bobae was happy to see Kijung look, but Leeha saw whose voice Kijung heard and where he looked.

‘Bastard…. Do well.’

Kijung, who looked at Leeha and Bobae, raised his hand holding the sword.

It was like he was saying, ‘I will not lose as long as I have this sword’.

Ready- Fight!

The second round of the standard tournament started like that.

Since the two of them did not have jobs to deal extreme damage, they did not rush toward each other when the fight started.

“Huuk, huuk, huuk- it’s a pity that you’re a templar because we are from the same organization. Just know that I have to go to the new continent to stop the demons.”

“Kek, you don’t have to be sorry. I will be going anyway.”

“Admirable courage, as expected of a templar. However, you do know that my reputation in the church of Ahlo is higher than yours, right?”

All kinds of light flashed from the body of the ‘Heresy Inquisitor’.

To match the class of a priest, he was already using enchantments and buffs such as strength and striking.

The ‘Heresy Inquisitor’ is inevitably weak while casting his buffs.

The heresy inquisitor deliberately spoke to Kijung to cover up that weakness, but Kijung didn’t seem to have any intention of attacking the heresy inquisitor while he was getting his buffs.

“Kkeung, if you look at Middle Earth as a whole, my reputation should be higher than yours. No, more than anything else, this tournament is about winning with skill. Come at me. I will deal with you without any buffs.”

Kijung stood in a crooked position and lifted his finger.

It was the perfect provocation toward the other person.

Although Kijung could not see the heresy inquisitor’s expression because he was wearing a bird’s beak-shaped mask, he could tell that it was scornful.

“Don’t regret saying that.”

“By the way, I wonder what your total constitution is? I don’t think you would die if I hit you moderately.”

Ppajik, ppajik.

Kijung provoked his opponent much better than Leeha thought.

“No need to wonder! A single attack that destroyed 1,000 heretics will make you disappear as well!”

Tat tat tat tat tat tat-!

The outsider ‘Heresy Inquisitor’, rushed toward Kijung with the huge hammer.

‘Fast! He’s even holding a weapon like that-’

Perhaps because the weapon was huge, the Heresy Inquisitor’s body was not overweight, and his speed was astounding to see from afar.

“Hmmmm, 『Ahlo’s Fist』!”

‘Heresy Inquisitor’ jumped without losing speed, throwing his hammer back as far as possible.

All the onlookers could tell that it was a single-target attack skill that carried all of the user’s weight.

“Oh, oh, oh, Kijung, why are you not dodging?!”

Leeha felt a pressure that made his chest tighten, but Kijung remained still.

“Kijung-ssi, Ki- Shield! Raise your shield!”

He wasn’t even holding a shield.

Baaaaang-

A hammer the size of a 6-7-year-old child’s body was mercilessly slammed into Kijung’s head.

*** ‘All the weight and acceleration of the ‘Heresy Inquisitor’, the powerful force of the hammer, was enough to scatter sand and dust of the gymnasium in all directions.

“Uh, what happened?”

“Wow…… Byulcho’s guild master got one shot?”

“Crazy…… I heard that the combat priest tech tree has skills like that.”

“His nickname is not ‘Heresy Inquisitor’ for nothing! He was an ‘inquisitor’ who literally ‘judged’ by breaking people’s heads! The first blow, with all the one-time buffs, explodes the attack power of two or three warriors in one shot!”

As the vision was obscured, the murmur around them grew louder.

“H-how? Kijung-ssi- it isn’t over like this, right?”

“He’s still alive. He didn’t log out, so-”

“This is a tournament in the capital! Of course, the Sacred Knights have already set the settings so that they won’t die! Even if he didn’t die, if he takes more damage than his HP, the fight will automatically be over!”

“Really?”

Leeha, who turned on his friend’s window and checked Kijung’s location, scratched his head as he listened to Bobae’s scolding.

‘What is this, she’s getting worried almost at the level of a girlfriend……? Kijung, this guy…’

I envy you.

It was the first thought that came to Leeha’s mind. Seeing Bobae clasp her hands together and stomp her feet, Leeha felt like laughing.

“Isn’t Leeha-ssi worried?”

“What is there to be worried about?”

“Right now, Kijung-ssi-”

“Kek, are you worried about that guy?”

Shuuuuuk!

Leeha stretched out his hand and pointed at Kijung. The sand dust had already dispersed enough to reveal Kijung, standing upright without even closing his eyes, with a hammer on his head.

“That’s crazy! Did he give up?”

“Since he’s a combat priest, isn’t his strength low? Did he endure the damage and hold on? How much health does he have?!

“Uwaaaah-! Master Kay! Master Kay!”

Listening to the surprise and cheers around him, Kijung’s lips twisted upwards and even Bobae opened her mouth wide.

“H…… how. No matter how high your defense is- unless you have a shield, the damage- you didn’t even get stunned-”

“I know. Ah, I wonder if it’s God’s will-”

Kijung moved his sword gently as if they were one body, and pointed the tip on the enemy’s neck.”

“What do you think? Do you want to continue?”

Kijung smiled softly.

‘When the ‘Heresy inquisitor’ struck down, only a few people saw the light shining from his sword.

“I…… I surrender.”

His one-time buffs have already been canceled. He knew that if Kijung rushed toward him while he was recasting his buffs, it would only lead to death and he would look pathetic.

Cheers broke out again as the ‘Heresy Inquisitor’ raised both of his arms after removing the hammer from Kijung’s head.

“Kyaaaaak! Kijung won! The outsider surrendering meant he got subdued with a mere glance!”

“Aack! My HP is low, Bobae-ssi!”

While avoiding Bobae from pounding his forearm, Leeha made eye contact with Kijung looking up at him.

Kijung looked at Leeha, pointed at his sword, and made a thumbs up.

『Legendary Sword of a Nameless Paladin』

Attack Power: 2,130~2,280

Class: Melee, one-handed sword

Effect: Strength + 10, constitution +20, buff – Guardian Saint: Nameless Paladin’s Will – Recovers HP of up to 20% every 8 seconds

Requirement: Strength 500 or more, 2,000 Constitution or more

Description: “I will block them, so hurry and get the people out.”

The nameless paladin shouted.

“Your shield is broken, and how will you stop the enemy with a broken sword.”

The princess asked.

“I am not worried. If I offer my body, my Lord will be with me.”

During the first Human-Demon War, he blocked the Demon King’s Army, which was around 5,000 units, alone to evacuate the citizens, and was appointed as Ahlo’s Saint after his death.

It is said that the commander of the Demon King’s Army and the nameless paladin stood in front of each other without defending or attacking.

Additional Effect: Acquire the skill Sacrifice when the constitution is over 2,500

Leeha nodded as he recalled the detailed description of the sword he had carefully examined.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘The sword must have some sort of effect. Maybe it was that buff?’

It was natural that there were effects other than a simple stat increase.

Because it was a “legendary” item that only five are registered in the entire Middle Earth auction house.

Not to mention, at Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair, he commanded the juvenile-class dragons to only bring the best ones, so the effect would be overwhelming even among the legendary ones.

‘And what about its attack power on top of such a defensive option? It takes about a second to swing once, but the attack power is 2,000…’

What about 45 hits per minute, assuming the opponent didn’t use any defensive skills and didn’t dodge?

The full damage per minute would be 90,000. It also meant that it was that much even without using attack skills.

In actual combat, all sorts of skills such as evasion and defense, as well as various buffs, were cast in order to protect one’s own HP, so it was theoretically possible, but the legendary sword had the effect of a legendary sword.

‘But what kind of effect did the buff provide to produce such an overwhelming result?’

However, since Leeha couldn’t wear the items, he didn’t know what effect the buff and skill provided.

The words paladin and saint go well with Kijung. Also, Leeha thought that the effect of recovering 20% of maximum HP every 8 seconds would go well with the tank Kijung, so he gave it to him.

When Leeha tilted his head thinking about the effect of the buff, Kijung, the only person who knew the contents, was looking at Leeha with a proud expression.

『Patron Saint: Nameless Paladin’s Will』

Description: “I felt the light of the Lord envelop me. After that, the pain became a pleasure and my testimony to the Lord.”

Effect: 40% damage reduction for melee attacks

Abnormal Status ‘Stun’ Resistance + 100%

It was an effect that made Kijung, a tanker, almost invincible!

It was because the ‘Legendary Sword’, which permanently applied the buff as long as he held it without using any mana, became his own.

‘This is really the best, hyung.’

“Right… So I guess that’s why they only needed 3 days.”


“Yes? What?”

After the battle between Kijung and the ‘Heresy Inquisitor’, Leeha was able to understand the reason for the duration of the tournament by watching the fights of other users.

“This is not reality, so they don’t need any recovery time. They just need to drink a potion. Even so, if it takes 3 days for the selection process-”

Hwak-! Leeha’s index fingers pointed here and there.

Camera-like items were filming the gymnasium from various angles.

“-They had to choose who to take. It wasn’t just Fibiel, it was being held in several places at the same time, so wouldn’t it mean that they would record everything first, review it, and then select? Of course. it would take time to inspect all these battles one by one.”

“Heh, I see. I thought they were only filming to make Y-tube videos.”

“Well, it might be useful for something like that. Is it going to be on Middle Earth’s official channel?”

Most of the experts gathered here would already be using the recording prevention scroll, and it would be difficult to overcome the effect with individual recording.

Since it was data that required the power of Middle Earth, it was only natural that individuals would not be able to use it for profit activities.

‘Fernand-ssi is going to have a hard time… Kilkil. I’m so glad he said that he would take care of it.’

What if Fernand didn’t step forward?

Leeha had to take charge of everything from persuading kings to selecting expedition members. Just imagining it was terrifying.

‘No, but the selection…… is Fernand-ssi going to do it alone? Wouldn’t that be strange as well?’

Leeha, who was holding back a laugh, suddenly had a question.

In any case, fernand was not suitable for the adventurer job, the composition of battle skills, the damage for each skill, and the evaluation of situational judgment during battle.

‘Of course, it would be stronger than most normal users, but in this situation, someone else would-’

???: Leeha-ssi, uh, based on the location, you must be watching in Fibiel, right? That’s good. Please cover about 20 people including the winner of the tournament on the Fibiel.

Fernand’s voice suddenly echoed in Leeha’s head.

The sense of foreboding he felt hit the mark.


Leeha: Huh? What?

Fernand: First of all, we will select each country and then gather them all together to decide on the final 40 people. Since all of the descendants of the heroes decided to participate, there will only be 20 remaining seats, but after narrowing down enough candidates-

Leeha: W-wait a minute. Me? You want me to choose?

Fernand: The video can be reviewed immediately within Middle Earth, so call Lee Jiwon, Kidd, or Luger nearby and watch it together.

You can call other descendants of heroes or something. Anyway, the final list of Fibiel should come out by the end of today! That way, we can finish the final selection in Ezwen tomorrow!

Leeha: uh, uh, uh, fernand-

Click. Fernand’s whisper cut off mercilessly.

It meant that you are so busy that you can’t talk like you normally do. Knowing its meaning, Leeha couldn’t bear to send a whisper again and refuse.

“Waaa……. This is driving me crazy.”

“Why?”

“Phew, fernand-ssi, the new continent expedition-”

“Kkak! This time, it’s the Dragon Knight’s guild master’s turn! His opponent is ‘Ascendant Mu’! Ascendant Baeju, ascendant Mu, fighting! Gulp, this will be fun!”

“Huh……? Bobae-ssi?”

Bobae paid attention to Leeha for a very short time and quickly paid attention to the tournament.

“Haaa……. Call descendants of heroes, Kidd, Luger, Lee Jiwon, or someone else, but the tournament is already in full swing?”

Anyway, since Leeha was asked to do so, he couldn’t do it half-heartedly. He changed his posture to look at the battles from a different perspective than earlier.

“Dragon Knight’s Guild Master…… Ah, it’s Gaeryong-nim.”

The Dragon Knights, who was a part of the Byulcho Alliance that fought Ram Hwayeon’s Hwahong Guild in the past. The guild master of that guild also entered as a regular tournament participant.

‘No, that’s not all. If I look closely, aren’t there some familiar faces?’

When Leeha focused on the tournament he was trying to enjoy, he could recognize some people.


‘Isn’t he the guild master of Somgwang? He has a sorcerer job.’

The guild master of Somgwang, which was also the part of Byulcho Alliance, euncheon.

‘Ah, indeed. He was next to Hyein-ssi. That’s right. Back then, Hyein was the guild master of Byulcho, so the two of them must be close.’

There was an argument after the failed acquisition of Castle Dale, but it had been resolved to some extent, so Hyein treated him with a relatively calm face.

‘And over there- Eh? Biyemi-ssi! He came! I thought he wouldn’t be able to come!’

Biyemi, who said that he would need to see the situation, was talking to someone while giggling.

“Waaa?!”

“That surprised me! What’s wrong?”

“Th-that person-”

It was a long time since he saw the person Biyemi was talking to with a smile on his face, but there was no way Leeha would forget how he looked.

With patterns and naturalistic clothing having become more complex than before, and slightly more foolish with a hint of timidly and oblivious at the way he was looked at by the people around him.

“Jin Gonggong-ssi!?”

Even the druid Jin Gonggong joined the tournament.

“It’s beginning!”

With Bobae’s shout, the battle between the Dragon Knight’s guild master, Gaeryong, and the outsider ‘Ascetic Mu’ began.

From this battle until the end of all tournaments that day, Leeha watched every game closely without even standing up from his seat.

‘As objective as possible’

Including Kijung’s third match, Hyein, Biyemi, and Jin Gonggong, Leeha’s eyes flashed and shone with objective evaluation standards.

‘I don’t have time to call anyone. Other people may watch the recordings but I am the only one watching it live! I have to give it a thorough look first!’

However, Leeha didn’t know.

Who was screaming next to him, forgetting snacks, and couldn’t even blink properly.

The person who applied and was qualified to participate in the 『New Continent Exedition』.

『Descendant of the Archer Hero from the second Human-Demon War』 10th in the ranking, ‘Archer’ Bobae, was enjoying the tournament.

*** By the time the tournament was over and all participants and spectators had dispersed, the moon had already risen in Middle Earth.

All the people who were crowded around them had disappeared, and only a few people remained. The full moon shone brightly, making it feel even emptier.

“Well, you should have told me sooner.”

Leeha, one of the few remaining, grumbled.

He alternatively looked at the stack of draft evaluation papers filled with ‘dense notes’ and Bobae’s face.

It was so obvious that it was not something he said to himself, but to be heard, that even Bobae had no choice but to look at Leeha with a perplexed expression.

“I-I didn’t know that Leeha-ssi was doing that! They said that the descendant of the Archer Hero could join, so I playfully signed up…. No, if that’s the case, you should have told me! Let’s do this together.”

“You didn’t even listen to what I said!”

“It’s because you didn’t say anything.”

When Leeha was about to mention what he talked about with Fernand to Bobae, she cut off her conversation with Leeha by shouting ‘Taoist Baeju, taoist Mu!’.

Leeha got even more upset and squirmed when he remembered what happened.

Even if he was over 30, things like this were not easy to manage. It was simply because Bobae was annoying.

“It’s hyung’s fault. If you had explained to Bobae-ssi properly, she would have helped you. No, wouldn’t she have done better than hyung?

She’s ranked 10th! She’s a strong fighter who can’t be defeated regardless if it’s melee or long range.”

And it was even more annoying seeing Kijung next to her shouting and defending her.

Leeha looked at Bobae and Kijung with absurd expressions and then looked at his draft evaluation sheet again.

He wasn’t even able to enjoy the tournament. He couldn’t blink because he didn’t want to miss an important scene. He was so focused that he felt dizzy……. Who would take away his sadness?

Step, step, step.

“Hyung? What’s the matter?”

Leeha quietly approached Kijung and extended his hand to express his sadness.

“Give me back the sword.”

In a ruthless tone.

“W-What?”

“If you side with Bobae-ssi, give me back the sword.”

“Hey, eong-ah. Why are you doing that? I was just saying, ehehehe.”

When Leeha made a sullen expression, Kijung quickly came to Leeeha’s side and gently rubbed his shoulders. Because he knew very well that Leeha had a personality that ‘easily sulks’.

Of course, it wouldn’t have been nice for Bobae to see that.

“Aw, you’re shameful. Kijung-ssi! Just give it back. Well, I don’t know what it is, but-…… I was wrong, Leeha-ssi. Hehe.”

Bobae stopped mid-sentence! She was initially angry but suddenly became quiet.

Leeha couldn’t help feeling absurd as he saw Bobae approach him with even a small smile.

‘Why did she change her attitude so quickly?’

Of course, Leeha found the answer.

“Kijung just whispered what kind of sword it is, right? Legendary rank? Did he say it has great performance?”

“Yes? N-no?! When I thought about it carefully, I thought ‘I should have helped first’ That’s right. Leeha-ssi, relax! What are you saying?”

Bobae approached Leeha, smiling like an old lady, and massaged Leeha’s shoulder! Paaak.

It was an action that was no different from bowing down, and people are still people…. Leeha’s grudge was naturally resolved.

“So, who are the 20 people that Leeha selected?”

“Ah! Right, hyung. Bobae-ssi should verify it.”

“It wouldn’t just be Bobae. I also don’t know because I only watched it in the middle……”

“Huh? What?”

Leeha opened his friend’s window and looked at the list.

Was he angry because Bobae didn’t help? Was he upset because Kijung fanned it? That wasn’t it.

Leeha took a deep breath and shouted at the top of his lungs.

“Kidd! Luger! Lee Jiwon-ssi! Can’t you come out soon? Everyone saw what I was doing here, right? Is there no one who would offer to help!”

Because many other people were currently in Aelstock! There’s no way they would have just gone to shops in a day like this!

(To be continued…)
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 “Waaak! Hyung! This is the headquarters of the Sacred Knights! You can’t scream!”

Without even listening to Kijung, Leeha screamed louder.

Come out!!! You traitors are pathetic! This was the fifth time Leeha spewed out childish words.

“Hmm, cough. Why are you yelling? I was just about to leave, what’s wrong with you?”

“You notice things quickly. I was going to blow your head as soon as you left the capital.”

“You have a good sense.”

Shadows appeared from all over the blind spots of the Sacred Knights headquarters.

Kidd, who was hiding his expression by pressing his hat as if embarrassed, Luger, who was grumbling without realizing it, and Lee Jiwon, who looked flustered.

They were watching the tournament from the beginning, and when they saw Leeha doing something, they hid and observed!

Leeha always got unusual achievements or quests with his unique behavior, and because they knew that Leeha had grown like that, so they watched him with the thought of getting something out of it.

“Ugh, I can’t believe I have to sail for over 60 days with people like this! Anyway, you guys come here! I have to pick 20 people out of all these people. I have to finish this within the day and send it to Fernand-ssi!”

Leeha was upset! When he shouted the three of them walked faster.

“Kijung, I don’t have the authority to evaluate you, but I will help you. It will be a dangerous voyage we will have to risk our lives. It needs to be closely examined from many aspects. Ah, the video-”

“Here! How can you do this? I brought all the videos to watch.”

As Leeha was about to settle down and give orders to the people gathered, Shin Nara rushed out of the Sacred Knight’s headquarters.

She was holding a bunch of small projector-like items, similar to the item Leeha used to record at the Royal Archives.

“Huh? Nara-ssi? Nara-ssi, are you also a descendant of a hero?”

“No. I heard there are only 40 seats. I can’t take that away from them.”

“Huh? What do you mean?”

Shin Nara put down the projector items under her feet and greeted the confirmed members of the new continent expedition who have gathered.


“I, Shin Nara of the Sacred Knights, will be participating in the new continent expedition under the authority of Fibiel Kingdom as the general inspector. Please take care of me.”

A joint operation in which all countries on the continent contributed materials and manpower. It was perhaps natural for such a position in addition to the number of combat personnel.

However, to maximize the combat power of the users, they did not take away the position of 40 combatants and took up the position of inspector.

That must be the power of Shin Nara.

“Indeed… I guess it wasn’t just a rumor that she is the closest user to becoming an NPC.”

Kidd quietly admired.

“As expected of Shin Nara. Okay! Then let’s get started!”

Leeha clapped! He encouraged the gathered users. The evaluation work started when the moon was rising and continued until the moon set.

The next morning, the list of 20 members of Fibiel’s new continent expedition was sent to Fernand.

“Wow! Thank you for your effort!”

“Kuwaaa…… it’s hard! I have never even studied this hard for a test before!”

Kijung laid down and threw away the pile of papers There were quite a few familiar names written on the evaluation papers fluttering around.

『Master Kay, templar, hard tank, and decent melee damage.』

『Hyein, sage, space Magic can be maximized after the construction of the mana relay tower.』

『Biyemi, Venom Mage, strong continuous damage, high understanding of the system.』

『Jin Gonggong, druid, secondary healer, reconnaissance through polymorph and auxiliary healer.』

『‘Ascendant Baeju’，-』

『‘Ascendant Mu’，—— 』

『‘Bald Panda’, martial Artists, can temporarily ‘run on water’.』

『Gaeryong, lancer, excellent close-range dealer, has mid-range damage dealing ability using javelin.』


『Eunchon, sorcerer, excellent ranged attack damage using totems.』

Name, occupation, simple characteristics, and even scores for each detailed evaluation that followed!

“Damn it, why are you evaluating these guys, I could kill them in a row!”

It took such a long time that Luger’s pomade was starting to get loose, he fixed his hair that was sticking out and complained to Leeha.

“You’re noisy, Luger. Are you a superhuman? There’s no use being strong alone on a 60-day voyage. What was Lee Jiwon-ssi going to say just now? It’s obvious even if I don’t hear it, so don’t say it.”

Leeha comforted them.

However, that wasn’t the problem.

This work, which everyone thought was finished, was actually just beginning.

“Now, let’s go to Ezwen. There must be a string of candidates in Minis, Shazrashian, and Kraven, so we have to go and select them.”

What they have completed so far was only for one country, Fibiel.

In other words, it meant that the candidates from each country must be discussed all night long again with the members of the selection team who were in charge of evaluating each country and the final decision must be made!

The users’ expressions hardened as soon as they understood the meaning of Leeha’s words.

“……I suddenly remembered something and-”

“If you log out, I won’t let you in again, Kidd.”

Leeha caught Kidd trying to run away without even looking at his clothes.

“Leeha-ssi, this is too much…”

“Nara-ssi, you are also Fibiel’s inspector, so you have to work hard. It’s for Fibiel’s national interest. I will not go easy on you.”

Shin Nara tried to be cute and cry, but it didn’t work either.

“There is no time to rest. Everyone is already gathering in Ezwen, so let’s go. Now! Now! Stand up! Hurry! We’re running late!”

Like a mother waking up her children in the morning to send them to school, Leeha tormented the users.


Everyone knew that this tedious and annoying work must come first for the perfect navigation to the new continent.

However, knowing and doing were completely different.

‘Hyung is really great. A sniper isn’t a sniper for nothing.’

Many users could not help but develop respect for Leeha, who voluntarily(?) meticulously prepared.

***

Boom.

As soon as the door to the pope’s audience chamber closed, an NPC knelt and prayed.

“God, please forgive them……”

“Why are you doing this? What’s wrong, cardinal?”

A priest user, startled by something completely different from usual, ran over and asked the NPC.

“I…… I can’t bear to say those words with my own mouth. What a feast of those vulgar words they have uttered in front of His Holiness!”

The cardinal shook his head with a pale face. The priest user didn’t quite understand.

“As far as I know, it’s a meeting for the final selection of the new continent expedition…… I don’t know what they were talking abou-”

“Isn’t it wrong to say things like ‘You’re an idiot’ and ‘I’m going to split your head’ in front of the pope? Oh, oh, but, for the sake of the continent and humanity, his Holiness held back from letting such vulgar words cloud his mind! Lord, protect your earthly agent’s mind.”

While listening to the cardinal NPC’s words, the priest user could not help but feel absurd.

‘Isn’t it said that the people gathered were the best users in Middle Earth, including Alexander? And they said something like that in front of the pope?’

The priest kept tilting his head as he watched the cardinal close his eyes and pray sincerely.

The discussion, which was so intense and active that the NPC freaked out, took another full day as Leeha expected, and ended on the third day just in time for Fernand’s initial planned deadline.

“I-It’s over! Excluding the descendants of heroes or people whose participation had already been confirmed! This is the finalized list of participants from the tournaments! No objection, right?! Do you have any objection to the decision of the expedition leader?!”

“Speak now if you have any objections. I will blow everything from your shoulders down if you raise your hand later.”

Luger slammed his head on the table-! And he left a single sentence.

With everyone exhausted and collapsed in the pope’s audience chamber, fernand took a piece of paper, approached the pope, and gave it to him.

“Your Holiness, this is the list of participants for the 『New Continent Expedition』. In addition to the 23 people listed here, including the descendants of heroes and those who have already confirmed to participate, the final confirmed count is 40.”

“Thank you for your… hard work, fernand.”

Shyaaaaa-!

When the pope tapped his shoulder, white light erupted from Fernand’s body.

The arduous quest to level up the pioneer king had finally been completed.

“Contact the selected individuals and immediately announce the start of the 『New Continent Expedition』! Fernand, when is the possible departure date?”

“We can depart as soon as Kraven’s ships are ready, Your Holiness. We have already made contact, so it will be possible as early as tomorrow morning.”

 “Good. Then, please complete all the maintenance today. In two days, you will set sail on a long journey for the peace and safety of humanity in this continent.”

A notification window appeared in front of the other users, who were exhausted from the extended meeting and were lying around freely, forgetting that they were in front of the pope.

『The Last Supper』

Description: How do you spend your free time each day? A voyage of more than 60 days would not be easy.

Content: Gather in front of the Vatican at 8 am in two days

Reward: Achievement – 2nd New Continent Expedition

Condition for Failure: Late

Penalty for Failure: Disqualification of New Continent Expedition force

– Would you like to accept?

‘Late. Where could they find such a crazy person.’

Leeha burst out laughing when he saw the absurd failure conditions compared to the fairly bloody quest title.

However, the content was by no means funny.

The voyage risking the survival of humanity in Middle Earth had now begun.

“Since I won’t be returning for a while, Paytor-nim should take care as much as possible.”

“Don’t worry, lord-nim.”

“Bottleneck has completed the water-based perimeter system, so there won’t be any raids. Do you have the file I wrote? What to do during an invasion.”

“Of course. Everyone is aware of it.”

Leeha had already made instructions on how to operate the city, including how to lead Gaza City in case of emergency.

And memorizing it was a natural thing for a butler NPC, not a human.

“Please prioritize the safety of residents over urban development.”

“Don’t worry. We will carefully store weekly income reports and settlement amounts in a safe.”

“Okay, I believe you!”

Leeha patted Paytor’s shoulder and encouraged him, then immediately logged out.

‘It’s only 2 days later in Middle Earth. No, exactly 38 hours later. I can roughly sleep for 6~7 hours.’

Leeha wondered if Middle Earth had become his reality, but did not think about it deeply.

Will they simply explore the new continent?

‘There’s no way. I promise once this adventure ends-’

What if he pooled all the settlement money from Gaza City with the items he would get during the New Continent expedition?

‘Will I finally achieve the treatment cost?’

Leeha instinctively knew that he could finally reach the minimum surgery amount of 2 billion won.

‘Now, I have to sleep quickly. This life which would make even the onlooker sad will end soon!’

Roll, roll, the arm pushing the wheelchair tensed, and strength went to it.

(To be continued…)
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 As soon as Leeha thought about the treatment, he felt nervous and excited at the same time, and even though he was tired, he couldn’t fall asleep easily.

After lying down on the bed and tossing and turning for a few minutes, Leeha ended up thinking about the new continent expedition again.

‘Now that I think about it, who are the other heroes’ descendants? It is a bit surprising that the six people who already joined initially were heroes’ descendants and that there are still 11 more.’

According to Fernand, among the 40 combatants, 17 were descendants of heroes and 23 were regular participants.

‘Ram Hwajung didn’t come today, but anyway…… Bobae mentioned that she was also a hero’s descendant. Nara-ssi is an additional member and is not counted.’

In other words, there are seven known heroes’ descendants among the participants, including Leeha, Kidd, Luger, Alexander, Lee Jiwon, Ram Hwajung, and Bobae. And 10 people who did not show up for today’s selection process.

‘They just gave me the list and said that everyone else is not present.’

The heroes’ descendants from Minis, Shazrashian, and Kraven did not come to the Holy City.

They appear to have no interest in how to combine the list they selected to form the optimal team with the available number of people.

‘It’s like they are saying that they are that confident…. Hmm, I don’t think so.’

It can be interpreted that no matter who they go with, they believe in their own strength.

Leeha wanted to see the 40 members of the expedition together.

‘For that to happen, I have to sleep right away. I have to sleep because even if I sleep right now, it won’t be enough.’

There was no way to predict who would be among the heroes’ descendants.

Beep- paak-!

“Haa, haa. It’s time- Okay. I’m not late.”

Leeha, woke up exactly at the sound of the alarm with a sharp spirit, prepared with disciplined movements like a soldier.

He finished washing up, ate a hearty breakfast, and checked the time and the community before logging into Middle Earth.

“As expected… It is only natural since more than 24 hours have already passed in Middle Earth.”

『Title: Phase 3 Main Story』


『Isn’t it the expedition to the new continent?』

『Title: List of New Continent Expedition Participants』

『Title: I heard the news yesterday, but the selection was already over』

『Title: Not necessarily a good thing. You have to be overworked and barely able to sleep for over 10 days』

『Title: this is just a good reward for being a latecomer』

Most of the articles that exploded in the community were stories related to the new continent. Most of them were also dissatisfied with the ‘rushed selection process’.

‘Tsk, we still get criticized even when we work. It’s not like Fernand-ssi did it because he wanted to.’

What could they have done when the game’s story was flowing too quickly?

Although it was inevitable that they would get cursed at because the general public did not know the truth, it was still uncomfortable for Leeha.

‘In fact, if we had been given a month or two to spare, more candidates would have participated.’

Of course, a considerable number of people flocked to the tournament to participate to be an expedition member for each country.

However, compared to the national war, this number was insignificant.

Chasing Bluebeard was actually the main content of Phase 2, but the ‘bait’ event, the national competition, was a grand festival in which everyone participated, so it was natural that complaints would surge in the community.

‘Hmm, then what is this? There would be no way in which only a few elites would be allowed to play like this. Could it be said that after constructing the mana relay tower, a large number of users would flock toward the new continent? Ah. I don’t know. I have to connect first.’

Leeha somehow had a premonition that there was something on this trip to the new continent, but at this point, there was nothing he could do.

He quickly logged in to Middle Earth and got ammo from the newly opened Bottleneck smithy in Gaza City.

“It makes me sick to my stomach to think that money goes into your pocket whenever I buy here.”

“What? Then don’t buy. Should I tell them to not sell you anything, Luger?”

“……I was just saying.”

Luger grumbled! While doing so, he stuffed the bullets into his belt and bag.


Leeha laughed happily at the sight.

“What are you doing? Are you resupplying ammunition only now?”

With less than an hour left until the quest deadline, Kidd finally came to the Bottleneck smithy in Gaza City.

“Why did Kidd-ssi come so late? Get it quickly and let’s go.”

The Three Musketeers were the Three Musketeers after all. The source of their strength was from bullets.

It was inevitable that the last stop before they left on a long journey was the Bottleneck Blacksmith Shop.

“Bottleneck-ssi, is the speed loader ready?”

“Damn it, what day is today? Three guys I don’t like come and ask me to do things, what’s happening? Damn it, beard Brothers!”

Bottleneck ran around, pulled out the items he had prepared, and called his assistants. The Beard Brothers grinned as they looked at the three musketeers lined up in front of the smithy.

“Hehe boss! Still, isn’t it amazing?”

“What? I’m going to be busy, so go and get that guy’s bullet and Kidd’s Speed Loader!”

“That’s how the three musketeers are. Huhut, really. It feels like I’m seeing Brown, elizabeth, and Browless. It’s a new feeling.”

Stop. At those words, Bottleneck’s movement for a moment.

The three men standing in front of the smithy with their backs to the sunlight.

Their clothes and personalities were different, but at least the guns they were holding and their attributes were of the heroes of the second human-demon war.

For the dwarf NPCs whose memories were set, the scene with the three of them together would be set up as a kind of emotional code.

“Heung, it’s still far away. Brown, elizabeth, and Browless were feared by all demonic beings. You’re still young, you aren’t there yet! Take it, you bastards!”

“Waak! Who said that? It was the Beard Brothers, why are you hitting me?”

Pak, pak!

Bottleneck hit Leeha’s thigh and flipped over the magazines.


Leeha became the actual owner of Gaza City, and Bottleneck was only a citizen of the city and the head of engineering, but their relationship remained the same.

The three musketeers packed their weapons, including bags full of bullets and bombs, and put bullets on their belts to complete their preparations.

“Are you ready? Nothing is missing, right?”

“You brat, get your head together.”

“Activate the crystal ball.”

“Not reading the mood, really…. In perfect touching times like this! Would it be better if I was the one to do it for you and move with you? With a new start, the three of us are joining forces again-”

Shoo- Shoo-!

Kidd and Luger, who had already activated their crystal ball, disappeared while Leeha was speaking.

“Tsk. I’ll be back Bottleneck-ssi! Headmaster Browless might come here from time to time as well!”

“Why would he come here?”

“I asked him to patrol the city once in a while if nothing is going on in the capital! Anyway, don’t waste too much money while I’m away-”

Shyuuk-!

“……Still nagging until the end. Phew!”

After Leeha disappeared, Bottleneck looked at the sky and trembled.

Three people arrived and gathered in front of the Holy City in an instant.

Not only the expedition members but also countless users gathered in the square in front of the Vatican.

Leeha could tell that they came to watch.

“Fernand-ssi!”

“Ah, the three musketeers! Finally, you came at just the right time. Stand over here quickly.”

Meanwhile, fernand was presiding over the event.

When Leeha joined the ranks, he felt he truly was a pitiful user.

『You have completed the ‘Last Supper’ quest.』

Babam-! With the completion of the quest, an achievement notification sounded in his head. All the members of the New Continent expedition team gathered together and the quest was cleared.

『Title: New Continent Expedition(A)』

Congratulations! You will participate as a member of the second expedition to the new continent. You will fight the rough seas and unexpected monsters! Can you overcome the unimaginable obstacles and reach the realm of God? To the members of the 2nd New Continent Expedition, who will be responsible for the revival of humanity, you must hurry! Even at this moment, the enemy will be constantly moving!

Reward: 18 Stat points

(This achievement does not have a hall of fame.)

‘Fernand-ssi must have gotten the first one a long time ago. Does that mean he had already gotten an A-rank achievement back then?’

It must not have been long after Middle Earth opened.

Looking at his achievements, Leeha was able to get a glimpse of how Ferdinand grew so quickly.

“Now! It will be over in just 30 minutes! I will formally greet you before boarding the ship in Kraven Kingdom! We have to get the quest quickly and leave, so get in line!”

Fernand shouted at the 40 users.

Leeha opened his friend’s window and looked at everyone’s location.

The only one who did not come was Shin Nara. She, who will join as an inspector for Fibiel rather than a member, was still in Fibiel Palace.

‘She will receive some kind of quest there. Heuheu. Anyway, it’s amazing.’

Leeha, who was moving to stand in line to receive the quest from the pope, found a group in a standoff.

“Kijung-ah! Hyein-ssi, Biyemi-ssi, Jin Gonggong-ssi!”

“Eong-ah! Come stand here!”

Kijung responded as a representative and waved his hand at Leeha.

However, Kijung’s expression was slightly uneasy. And he was waving his hand toward Leeha but kept glancing to the side.

“Uhi, uhihihihit! Sur~prise! It’s been a while, Ha Leeha!”

“……What, you? Petyr?”

Leeha’s steps toward Kijung abruptly stopped.

The user with clown makeup standing next to Kijung gave an excessive welcome greeting to Leeha.

“How could you-”

“Uhihihit! Surprise, surprise!”

“What-”

Shwiik-!

Petyr lowered his posture and instantly rushed to the bottom of Leeha’s chin.

Just as his sharp nails were about to touch Leeha, baang-! A metallic sound rang out.

“Kiskis, I know you didn’t really intend to attack, but no matter how crazy you are, isn’t it wrong for you to do something like this in the Vatican?”

Before he knew it, Biyemi had followed his movements and struck Petyr’s nails with a dark green dagger.

Petyr quickly shook off his hand, held his belly, and laughed again.

“Puhihihit! Is this the advice I would want to hear from someone like a lizardia, who isn’t even a 2nd human-demon war hero’s descendant? I can’t keep up with such a slow pace, I’m so sick of it! Uhat! This is delicious, it’s totally red.”

“……Right. You are also a hero’s descendant.”

Leeha was unable to understand the situation by listening to his frantic sounds.

‘A legendary item that could save extra lives. Biyemi-ssi said that when he was working as ‘Nguyen’, there was a fight over it and his character ended up being deleted.’

In other words, it was natural that Petyr, the winner at that time, was the assassin hero’s descendant.

Because of the commotion, the eyes of the 40 members of the new continent expedition were focused on Leeha, Petyr, and Biyemi.

Among them, there were heroes’ descendants and some were tournament participants, but in any case, they were all the same, keeping Leeha and Petyr in check to some extent and observing them closely.

A person walked out through them.

“I don’t think you should be surprised, right? Hi, Ha Leeha-ssi~!”

It was the voice Leeha had heard before but was not familiar with.

The insidiousness buried in her charm. Leeha was surprised to see the user separating the other expedition members.

“……no- You were clearly not in the tournament list!”

“Tournament? Oh my, did you think that there was no dancer class among the heroes of the Second Human-Demon War? Huhut, please take care of me.”

The female user gently bowed and greeted Leeha. Chiyou was also included in the 40-member expedition to the new continent.

(To be continued…)
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 “Last time we met as enemies and it was really bloody, but it is nice to meet again in the same team like this, doesn’t it?”

“Who are you saying are on your team?”

“Oh my, why are you like that? You know how much tax I pay to Gaza City. It is better if we treat each other well. Not only on the voyage, but also in the future〜 if you want to work together with me.”

Chiyou smiled.

The thick puffy skin under her eyes made her look softer and brighter, but Leeha ignored her.

‘She knows that I am the lord of the castle. No, it’s only natural to know that much. Most users know everything now.’

Most regular users who stop by Gaza City will know that the actual city lord was Leeha. Furthermore, there was no way that Chiyou, who already owns a store, didn’t know.

‘The question is, when did she know? Is it now that the general users are starting to know about it or is it before……?

What if Chiyou deals with information and is an enemy outside the party?

Leeha may have quickly obtained the news that Gaza City was obtained, and in other words, informed Faust and ordered them to complain.

That was exactly what Leeha suspected.

‘According to Paytor’s report, Chiyou’s shop, a high-end restaurant, did not receive any damage. It is because of that.’

But he couldn’t be sure.

In addition, there were many shops that did not receive any damage at all.

Although the citie’s functions were paralyzed by more than 60%, the actual damage to buildings and structures was only around 40%.

If he were to simply judge by whether or not there was any damage, there would be countless suspects.

‘Madam Ju hasn’t said anything yet…. It must have been a while since the investigation itself began.’

They were busy preparing for the opening of the Holy Grill Gaza City branch.

He asked for Chiyou to be investigated, but it was not yet known how far the work had progressed.

Most importantly, Chiyou met Petyr and applied for the 2nd new continent expedition at the ‘time’ where Leeha was at Holy Grill, so no matter how quickly the investigation would not be conducted, it would not be possible to get it right in time.


“His Holiness is entering!”

The square in front of Vatican became quiet along with the powerful sound of drums.

Leeha could no longer argue with Chiyou.

As the 40 members of the new continent expedition team lined up and users around them tried to record the historic moment using various recording and recording systems, Leeha’s mind was racing alone.

‘No, if we only look at the enemies outside the circle, is Petyr one of the suspects?’

Until now, Leeha was thinking of the ‘hidden hand’.

But what about Petyr? He couldn’t be ignored either!

‘During the national war, he personally went out to assassinate the commander-in-chief. Even though it failed, Petyr didn’t die either! If he is alive, he can continue to direct the strategy after that!’

Since his job is an assassin-class, he must be good at stealth.

It also makes sense that he was related to Shazrashian’s Igor. Most importantly, they were both rankers.

‘Right. I may be wrong from the start. Chiyou isn’t the only problem. Petyr can not be ignored either. Anyway, he is the one who trampled on Biyemi and rose to the top rank as an assassin. Is it possible that the 『her』 that Faust mentioned is just a verbal tic?’

A sniper must be cautious.

There were times when one should follow one’s own intuition, but that was only when it was unavoidable.

Wasn’t the most reasonable and rational job among soldiers the sniper?

While Leeha couldn’t concentrate on the Pope’s speech and was contemplating about Petyr, Chiyou, and the hidden hand, Chiyou was smiling.

‘Fufufu, you must be confused, aren’t you? If I had come alone, you would have definitely misunderstood… but Petyr is also here.’

The reason Chiyou went to Midnight Circus even though she could have participated in the expedition and gathered information herself. In other words, there was only one reason for Petyr to participate in the expedition.

‘People’s eyes are naturally drawn to stimulating colors. More so if it’s that idiot clown who tried to assassinate Fibiel’s King, and the national war’s commander-in-chief… it is the perfect distraction for Ha Leeha.’

To divert Leeha’s attention away from her.

The plan of Chiyou, the leader of Shinobigumi and the ‘hidden hand’, whom Leeha still had no idea about, succeeded spectacularly.


While Leeha was trapped in the thought trap, the pope’s speech was almost ending.

“-Therefore, we can no longer sit idly by and ignore the danger posed by the Demon King’s fragments, in the name of Lord Ahlo.

The powers of all continents have gathered here to pursue and annihilate them. Of course, I have no intention of placing the entire burden of this world on the shoulders of 40 people. The biggest task you must do to accomplish is to create link between the new continent and this continent. A full-fledged chase for the Demon King’s fragment.”

Not only the expedition members but also almost all the gathered users realized that every word this NPC said would be a hint for phase 3.

“It will not be easy. I can’t imagine how rough the road would be to the land of the unknown.. All I can do is pray that Ahlo’s blessings be with you on your journey…”

The pope quietly closed his eyes and folded his hands.

Some user’s hearts burned hotly as they watched that somewhat godly scene.

“Expedition leader, come forward.”

As soon as the pope finished speaking, one of the 40 people lined up stepped forward.

The man’s steps were slow, but whose composure suited him well.

A man who was accepted without disagreement by all 17 heroes’ descendants and people whose skills were recognized through the tournament.

1st in ranking, Alexander, the Great, stood proudly with his shoulders squared in front of the pope.

“It suits him quite well. doesn’t it?”

“Alexander’s chuunibyou disease is very famous.”

“……I will definitely find out his weakness during this expedition.”

Kidd and Luger answered Leeha with their own thoughts.

Not to mention, the general participants in the tournament, it was only natural that the general users were also able to recognize Alexander.

In the case of Luger and Lee Jiwon, who Leeha expected to produce strong backlash, did not have any comment this time. It was because he had experienced Alexander’s true skills without Bailephus.

‘Right, no one could deny that. What was always hinted at in the quest was to somehow have at least one survivor. In the worst case, even if all expedition members die and the expedition ship is completely destroyed, at least one person must arrive to the new continent. In other words, it means survivability.’

The pope placed his hand on Alexander’s head and quietly prayed.


‘And when it comes to survival, Alexander has an advantage over anyone else. Because Bailephus is with him.’

The moment the pope’s mouth stopped moving, a notification window appeared in front of 40 users.

『Beyond the Dawn Sea』

Explanation: “I don’t want to be unfair, but please understand that I have no choice but to burden you. If this voyage fails, we don’t know what will happen to the launch of the next expedition to the new continent. Because it is not easy to navigate. So you must succeed. If we fail, we…. We will have no choice but to wait in anxiety and fear until the Demon King’s Fragments come across again from beyond the Sea of Dawn, leading his minions. May Ahlo’s blessing protect you.”

Preparations for the launch of the expedition, which gathered manpower and resources from all countries on the continent, is complete. From this moment on, you must leave for an uncertain voyage. Innumerable difficulties and endless choices await you….

Content:

Construct mana relay tower on the Sea of Dawn

At least one out of the 40 combat personnel arrives in the new continent

Construct mana relay tower on the new continent

Reward: ??

(Reward changes according to the number of goals achieved）

Condition for Failure :When 2 or more goals are not achieved

Upon failure: 5 Lv. decrease(Stat points will be decrease according to level)

Additional decrease of stat points by 20

Achievement: Continental Setback

Title: ‘Broken Hope of Humanity’ force equip

– Would you like to accept?

‘As expected, even if only one person- no, something is different this time?!’

The faces of 40 users changed into various colors.

Some of them did not understand the contents of the quest, while others were shocked by the enormous penalty for failure.

‘Is this quest a step-by-step procedure? Well, since we will not be able to report while voyaging, it would be better to give it like this from the beginning.’

Normally, they would do action a, comeback and report, receive the reward, and then proceed with quest b, but it was not possible this time.

Therefore, having multiple goals from the beginning and assign tasks to achieve them.

‘40 combat personnel. The remaining NPCs were all just manpower needed for mana relay tower construction or navigation. In other words, the moment goal number 2 fails, it would be practically complete 1 and 3.’

All NPCs will die during navigation.

Therefore, the absolute condition for completing this quest is to have one out of the 40 combatants to arrive at the new continent.

That point was consistent with the reason why Leeha and the other users chose Alexander as their leader.

‘The smoothest way to complete the quest is to build a mana relay tower on the way then proceed early. If we do that, goals 1 and 2 will be achieved. First of all, the worst case scenario of quest failure has been overcome.’

If the construction of the mana relay tower in the new continent fails, the success reward.

That alone was reassuring .

‘No it’s not reassuring. After that, it would mean that a third expedition would have to be formed to start again at the midpoint of the Dawn Sea, where the Mana Relay Tower is. Bluebeard might awaken the other Demon King’s Fragments. We must move with the determination to achieve all three goals.’

Leeha swallowed his saliva, thinking it was very difficult.

If they failed, they get a 5 level reduction and 25 subsequent stat points, and another 20 stat points.

This meant that it was not just a simple 5 level reduction, but was almost 10 level reduction.

The question of whether there would be users who would not accept the quest because of the huge penalty was just unfounded.

‘If there were enough users to join the expedition, of course they would know.’

The fact that the reward of completing a difficult quest was great. Although there was tension and anxiety, no one refused the quest.

All 40 users pressed the accept button.

“I pray for the success of the 2nd New Continent Expedition for this land and for humanity, and at this moment, in the name of God, I officially acknowledge the start of the expedition.”

The pope finally finished his final declaration.

Hwaaaaaaa-

“I want to avoid being called the bastard who broke the hope of humanity.”

“I agree. The pope is giving a ridiculous quest.”

“Geez, it sounds good that the condition for failure is not being able to fulfil two or more conditions, but isn’t it all meaningless if we are not able to do all three?”

“Kiskis, that’s right. Of course, it is linked to the period and speed at which Bluebeard awakens the other Demon King’s Fragments, but…. it’s going to be quite complicated.”

“I-I just participated because I wanted to increase my intimacy with plants and animals, but the work is really big.”

The users put their minds together to reduce their anxiety.

Alexander opened his mouth as the pope descended from the podium and looked at the 39 members of the expedition.

“Why are you worrying so much? Don’t think about it too complicatedly.”

It was noisy with the cheers of those around him, but Alexander’s low, deep voice was enough to attract the attention of the expedition members.

What did he mean about not thinking about it too complicatedly?

Was it about looking at the step-by-step quest goals, variable rewards, and huge penalty for failure?

However, Alexander was ranked first.

The power of being number one in the rankings was demonstrated at times like this.

“We have to clear it.”

He demonstrated an overwhelming ability to sum up even complex quests in one sentence.

“Bailephus.”

Hwaaaaa—-!

As soon as Alexander finished speaking, the golden knight standing next to 40 users polymorphed in an instant.

Making the user’s cheers even louder, Alexander climbed onto Bailephus’ neck.

“Let’s go. To Kraven’s seas.”

All the users disappeared after tearing up the designated location scroll that Fernand had distributed earlier.

(To be continued…)
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 “Waaaaa..”

“Crazy, this- is this a ship?”

“Isn’t this a spaceship?”

“E-even the ships with the long-ranged cannons weren’t like this……”

All the members of the expedition had their mouths wide open as they looked at the new continent sailing ships. Even those who saw Kraven’s ships during the naval battle were surprised by the huge size of the ships, and their unique appearance, with the nimbleness that did not match their huge size, caught their eyes.

“The battleships that have culverine cannons? It’s incomparable! Anyway, it’s just a ship for combat. Can you even compare it to a ship that is literally an ‘adventure’ ship?”

Fernand confidently said, wiping under his nose.

“Right! This is the ship that was destroyed just before the last battle of the 2nd Human-Demon War! It is said that the demon king’s army was already preparing to retreat across the Dawn Sea. Since you are heroes’ descendants, I thought it would be very frustrating to take on the task of restoring this! This time, we had to build another ship just like that, so people went crazy and started jumping around.”

Among the 40 expedition members, several were from Kraven.

This was because there were uncontrollable variables in leaving the ship operation to only NPCs, let alone battles.

One of them, a user from Kraven, a descendant of a hero from the 2nd Human-Demon War, stepped forward and opened his mouth.

“Kiskis, I have been wondering…… As expected of Captain ‘Hook’.”

“Who is that, Biyemi-ssi?”

“He is a famous Kraven privateer. Well, maybe a certified pirate? One of the reasons why most of the supplies going from Fibiel to Shazrashian Federation went by land route is because of that person. I heard that he had taken in all pirates based on small islands whether they were users or NPCs…”

“And a person like that is a hero’s descendant?”

“Kiskis, isn’t it interesting? Anyway, on the surface, he is a privateer, that is, he has permission from the Kraven Kingdom, so there is no problem.”

Suddenly, Leeha understood why Fibiel’s navy called Kraven’s navy ignorant pirates.

Heroes’ descendants refer to those who showed outstanding performance in their respective occupations in their respective countries during the Second Human-Demon War.

‘But there are people who are practically pirates…. Huh, really.’

There were 6 participants from Kraven’s side.


Other than ‘Hook’, a descendant of a hero, most of the tournament participants were also related to the sea.

“Then how do we get on board? There are two ships.”

Someone’s question immediately made the area around the dock noisy.

They knew they had to split the ride, but how would they allocate the number of people?

“Shouldn’t we split it so that we have similar power? I don’t know what kind of enemies we will encounter along the way.”

“Let’s just do it with like-minded people! I don’t know what kind of enemies we will encounter along the way, so how can we fight with people I’m not familiar with for the first time?”

“How about riding by country? Wouldn’t that be better?”

“That’s great! Let’s ride together! Out of the 40 people, there are 16 from Fibiel, 13 from Minis, 4 from Shazrashian, 6 from Kraven, and 1 from Ezwen! Fibiel-Shazrashian for 20 people, and Minis-Kraven-Ezwen for another 20 people. Is it okay if we divide it that way?”

“Then ships with many melee dealers will be vulnerable to attacks…

“There’s more! There are also NPCs inside, but what if the users are divided by country? Their actions will focus on the interests of their own country, not on the human alliance! It shouldn’t be that kind of competition, it should be as a team-”

“Where in the world is there something like that? All you have to do is get there somehow! Isn’t our goal for the greater peace of humanity? The construction of the mana relay tower! We have to come up with an arrangement!”

The expedition members began to exchange opinions.

Even though they hadn’t even set off yet, they had a lot of thoughts over just the question ‘How to split the number of people?’.

“Keung, we’re in trouble.”

Leeha also listened to the opinions of users who raised their voices.

Each opinion had its own points, so they could not be easily dismissed. Naturally, the eyes of the users were drawn to Alexander.

It was also the role of the leader to mediate conflicts.

“What should we do, Alexander-nim?”

Fernand asked.

“I heard one ship was Minis’ and one ship is Fibiel’s, is that right?”


“Ah, yes. I mentioned earlier that Hook and other Kraven users built both ships, but Fibiel and Minis each provided funds to purchase one ship.”

This meant that the ownership itself lies with the two powerful countries on the continent.

Alexander nodded as he heard those words.

“I understand. The list.”

When Fernand handed him a list with the names of the expedition members, Alexander looked at Bailephus and said something.

Seeing that, Leeha felt a little relieved.

‘He wasn’t appointed as the expedition leader simply because he was ranked number one. The biggest thing is that Bailephus, a helper NPC, is by his side 24 hours a day, 365 days a year.’

『Kyuuu!』

“Cough, well if Blaugrunn-ssi was ancient-class, then we could have also done it.”

『Kyuuu?』

“No, no. It’s all right.”

Compared to his own hatchling, who was also a dragon but could not communicate with him yet, the gold dragon had majesty that made him trustworthy.

While playing around with Blaugrunn, Alexander had already finished his discussion with Bailephus.

“Okay. Let us do it like this. First. Divide those who have the same jobs equally across each ship. Second. Group those who are compatible with each other together. Third, mix the countries as much as possible, but if one country inevitably has too many members in one group, make it so that they will board the other country’s ship.”

“That’s reasonable!”

Someone from the expedition team shouted.

The intention was to equalize the power of the two ships as much as possible while preventing selfish acts for their own country at the same time.

Alexander’s decision was based on preventing the worst possible outcome ahead of getting to the new continent.

‘The real start is after overcoming all the challenges…. One alliance could try and sink the other ship in order to monopolize the new continent.’

Did they really work together just because of the Demon King’s Fragments? Everyone already knew that it wasn’t the case.


Therefore, it was appropriate to have at least the minimum insurance, and in that sense, there was no disagreement about Alexander’s group formation.

“From now on, those whose names get called will board Minis’ ship. 1st, Ha Leeha-”

Starting with Leeha, a total of twenty people were selected to board Minis’ ship.

What did it mean for Leeha to be assigned to Minis’ ship?

It meant that Alexander selected many people affiliated with Fibiel whom Leeha was familiar with.

‘Great.’

Therefore, it was only natural for Leeha to be delighted. Even before getting on the ship.

The first person Leeha encountered after climbing on the ship traveling the Sea of Dawn was an unexpected person. No, it was NPC.

“It’s been a while. Fibiel’s musketeer, Ha Leeha.”

“Oh, ohhh, uh-”

Minis was an ally of Kraven.

And what Kraven provided in terms of alliance for this expedition to the new continent was navigation ability. Therefore, it was not particularly strange for Kraven’s personnel to operate the ship owned by Minis.

All users were combatants, and NPCs operated the ships.

So who was the best person on Kraven’s side who would operate the Minis-owned ship?

It was a simple guess.

“-Commander Drake!”

Leeha shouted, lightly adjusting the hem of his coat.

With the attitude of not wanting to take it off.

*** Hwaaaaa- Hwaaaa–!

The ships that left the port quickly began to speed up.

The captain of the Minis-owned ship that Leeha was riding was Drake, an NPC from Kraven. He was someone who knew how to best use the wind and waves.

Of course, the Fibiel-owned ship did not lose speed and kept up with them.

If Kraven sent Drake, there were only a few NPCs from Fibiel who could match him in the first place.

“I never thought Commander Burke would be the captain over there.”

“Noisy man.”

As Leeha shook his head and looked at the boat across them, Ram Hwajung, who was next to him, helped out.

“It’s not just Burke. If it’s about causing trouble, there’s someone there who won’t be bested by anyone…”

Kidd, standing behind Ram Hwajung, put on his hat and shook his head. Who was the person they were worried about?

Shin Nara: L-Leeha-ssi! Luger, isn’t he a crazy guy? He’s asking users to fight him after meeting them for the first time-

Leeha: Don’t react too emotionally, just ignore him.

Shin Nara: He was making a fuss about fighting me just now! He wants to take away my ranking, but…….

Leeha: Talk to Alexander and he will be quiet. Once you get involved with Luger, it will never end, so you should ignore him as much as possible.

Shin Nara: Pei Wu-ssi came forward just now, saying that as a fellow Fibiel citizen, he couldn’t just ignore it. I don’t know why people in here are like this!

Leeha could tell just by hearing Shin Nara’s complaints coming at the right time.

Luger belonged to Fibiel who was classified into a similar occupation group as Leeha and boarded Fibiel’s ship.

Although the majority of people who boarded Fibiel’s ship were Minis users, he was not discouraged.

Rather than being discouraged, he was now looking for a fight with them like a fish out of water.

He is a great guy. It’s a bit unfortunate that Nara-ssi, who is Fibiel’s inspector, can’t go with us because she has no choice but to board Fibiel’s ship.’

Leeha sighed as someone slowly approached him.

“Hyung!”

“Wah! Kijung-ah! And Bobae-ssi.”

“Hehe, you look like you lost your coat and country, why don’t you look good even though you took your coat back?”

“Oh my, Kijung-ssi, is that a joke? Pfft, I think he doesn’t look good because he doesn’t have his country.”

“Hehe, it’s a wordplay that’s getting popular these days.”

Kijung and Bobae made fun of Leeha together. Leeha shook his head while listening to their ridiculous conversation.

But how did you get back the coat?”

“Don’t even ask. He said that he would wear it when we arrived at the new continent, but he decided to lend it to me since he will not be wearing it right now. Phew…. I knew this day would come.”

Leeha used bargaining and everything he had, but nothing worked.

Who would have thought that the first obstacle in the new continent expedition would be Drake trying to get back his coat?

‘It was fortunate that my continental reputation had increased compared to before. Otherwise, it would have been impossible.’

Drake was secretly happy to see Leeha, but he tried to take back his coat without hesitation.

『Ferdinand and the New Serpent 』. Currently, blue Marlin and New Serpent are cruising off the coast of Kraven toward the Far East, and thanks to the skills of each ship’s captains, it is estimated that they will leave Kraven’s territorial waters shortly after sunset. Each ship’s reconnaissance team should begin reconnaissance after sunset, and after leaving the territorial waters, so please rest comfortably and prepare until then］

『The scheduled date of this voyage was approximately 60 days. At the time of the first expedition to the new continent, it took about 50 days to get to the point where we last turned, and there was something resembling land at the edge of the field of view from that point. If it is truly the new continent, this voyage will end in about 60 days.』

Fernand’s voice, using loudspeaker magic, filled with free space in the ocean.

‘Is the name that was upgraded from the Sailfish Blue Marlin? It really is Commander Burke’s sense of humor.. The fact that the New Serpent was upgraded from the Serpent was not much to praise either.’

Leeha laughed at the naming sense of the NPCs and repeated Fernand’s cry once again.

The first day of sailing was relaxing and everyone was excited.

None of them, who were thinking about what would happen in the future, could sense the anxiety hidden in Fernand’s words.

(To be continued…)
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 『What do you think, drake?! You can’t match my skills, right?! Kuhahahaha! Your skills will be evident when you are navigating ships of the same class!』

As the Blue Marlin pulled ahead against the New Serpent, burke’s voice was heard through the waves.

“……I really don’t know why he’s like that.”

It was a childish provocation that made Leeha, who was also from Fibiel, feel a little embarrassed.

“I feel sorry for Nara. How much is she suffering oh that ship?”

The captain and members were saying that only half of the personnel were right……

Bobae shook her head as she looked at the Blue Marlin a certain distance away.

At some point, no whispers came from Shin Nara, and it was easy to guess how busy she was running around.

“Compared to that, our captain is like a real captain. Right, hyung? He is solemn, and his clothes are also nice.”

Kijung looked at the captain of the New Serpent, who didn’t even turn his nose at Burke’s childish provocation.

“He already has clothes like that, so he should just give me his coat as a gift. So stingy. Also, it’s a bit unfortunate that there’s also a title attached to it.”

“Hmm, that’s right. It’s a shame that you have to return it. Rather- uoohh?!”

At that moment, the New Serpent tilted and increased speed.

Can a ship accelerate without changing the wind or rowing the oar? Of course, there was only one reason.

『If you’re going to follow me, follow me.』

Drake used a skill.

“……I take back what I said about him being cool. What kind of captain is so emotional?”

“That’s right.”

Meanwhile, his attitude of provoking Burke again by using his loudspeaker skill was enough to make Fernand hit his forehead.

The voyage of the new continent expedition team, which had a coordinated log-out rotation, did not encounter any problems yet.


When it was almost time for the sunset to turn the sea red, one could see that those who had been hanging around started to maintain their weapons again.

“They definitely do it like people with a lot of experience.”

These were people who had lived through all the traps of Middle Earth.

No one had forgotten what Fernand had said at lunchtime about ‘reconnaissance after sunset and four-way alert’.

Fernand exchanged whispers with Alexander and assigned duties to each personnel on the ship.

『New Serpent’s sorcerer, eunchon-nim, blue Marlin’s sculptor, rodin-nim. Please install a searchlight function on the bow of each ship and on top of the main mast. If possible, please make it so that it can last all night.』

Leeha wasn’t surprised when he heard that Rodin was a sculptor.

‘That guy got pretty high in the Minis tournament. If a sorcerer uses a totem, a sculptor recreates the effect of totems using the sculptures he or she creates.’

Not long after Fernand’s instructions were given, huge light sources were installed in various places on the ship.

In addition to simple attacks, the specialty of these jobs was that they have utility skills.

Fernand gave instructions with a satisfied expression.

『Shift scouts must start as soon as the installation is completed. You will need quite a bit of concentration as you will have to look at the sky as well as the sea. New Serpent’s druid Jin Gonggong, and Blue Marlin’s tamer Yongyong, please conduct the first scout.』

“Indeed. Is that the tamer over there?”

In the Blue Marlin, a bird that looked like a hawk soared rapidly into the air.

“Kiskis, in some ways it’s better than what people see. Still, Jin Gonggong-nim, fighting! Don’t lose!”

Biyemi sat next to Leeha and laughed heartily and shouted.

Jin Gonggong cast magic near them.

The reasons why he, a druid, was able to join the expedition was about to be proven.

“Hmmm, the sun will set soon…. Polymorph: Nighthawk!”

Shuwaak-!


The druid chose the nighthawk, a type of hawk.

It was good at hiding itself in the dark, and like the nocturnal owl, it had a night vision and fast flying speed.

“Kuuu, you’re good! Good luck, Jin Gonggong-ssi!”

Ppiiiik—-!

Jin Gonggong soared upward, screeching as if responding to Leeha’s cheering.

“We are now outside of Kraven’s territorial waters! In addition to aerial scouting, we need to prepare for attacks from below, so each user should check the area around the ship at regular intervals!”

All right!

It was a few minutes before sunset.

Although the sunset was not even visible, the sun had already long gone into the water, and now the new continent expedition team had to rely only on artificially made light.

The pitch-black sea, where it was difficult to see even an inch ahead without light, made it impossible to guess the end.

When viewed from the sky, it appeared as just a white dot waving gently on a pitch-black drawing paper.

Shwaa— Shwaa—!

Everyone adjusted their weapons while listening to the sound of the huge ship crashing through the wave.

From sunset to midnight, six more hours passed through the darkness.

Piii, piiiiik——!

“Huh? Jin Gonggong-ssi?”

When Leeha looked up at the sky, he was not able to see Jin Gonggong.

But he quickly learned what the cry meant.

“There’s something in front of the bow! Light! Light!”

“Change the searchlight the direction to the front bow.”


Fernand immediately gave a command upon hearing Jin Gonggong’s whisper.

As the users who installed the searchlight in the first place and the NPCs following Drake’s orders changed the direction of the light, the spray of water bouncing from beyond the bow finally caught the users’ eyes

“Waaah, amazing!”

“Oh……. Is that some kind of monster?”

“I think it has the feel of a rough fish even though it’s a saltwater fish. I never thought there would be such a type of monster.”

Leeha, Kijung, and Kidd could not help but express their admiration one after the other.

Running on the sea were ruffed lizards about 5 meters in size.

It was difficult to estimate the number of lizards running in the dark, on two feet, skimming through the surface of the water.

“We must prevent them from getting near! Sailors, open the left and right cannons and start loading! If they come into sight, fire immediately!”

Hwaaaa—!

At the same time as Fernand from the New-Serpent shouted, golden light exploded from the Blue Marlin.

Even Bailephus changed back to his dragon form again, this is the first encounter of the new continent expedition team in the ocean waters.

『Don’t let them hit the ship, the impact will make a hole! And it will be hard to handle if they get on the ship, so you have to deal with them before they get near if possible! Mages-』

『You talk a lot, fernand. Our expedition team is not that weak, so don’t make a fuss.』

Kiririririt—!

『No one would call this a ‘critical moment’.』

The users had installed so many searchlights that they did not know what to use, but Alexander remained calm.

『Everyone, begin the battle.』

Flap—flap—–!

Alexander, who was flying into the sky on top of Bailephus, suddenly held a spear of light in his hand.

It was a monster that they had seen for the first time and an unfamiliar water battle, but the number one ranker was still dependable.

“I can’t see it, so I don’t know how strong it is! Please adjust the searchlight properly, eunchon-nim!”

“It’s easier said than done! Those bastards are running so fast that they spread out so quickly-”

Gaeryong took a stance to throw a spear right away, but Eunchon was still wandering.

The female user behind them held a crystal ball.

“I’ll let you see.”

“Puhat, you’re saying you’ll let me see? Can you see with your eyes? What kind of eye cover are you wearing?”

One of the Shazrashian giant users laughed at her, who covered her eyes with a cloth, like an eye cover, but she calmly finished casting her spell without replying.

“The pattern is drawn on her eye cover…. I have seen it. That bright red jewel-like pattern-”

“Oracle…… She’s the most famous Oracle user! ‘Doctor Doom’, miss Rubini!”

‘Doctor Doom’ finished casting just as the other expedition members recognized her.

“Area Mapping.”

Hwaaaaaa….

A huge holographic map was created in the center of the New Serpent with a red light.

However, the red map was different from the regular map.

“Wow…… What is this? Is this the map?”

“Amazing! This is an oracle user.”

“Not just an ordinary oracle, it is the map of ‘Doctor Doom’, the ‘Foreteller of Destruction’!”

Despite her calm appearance, it was a terrible nickname.

‘Foreteller of Destruction’ Doctor Doom. A hero’s descendant from the oracle job class that could predict the future!

The map she created clearly showed the locations of the monsters. Of course, it was not a simple location tracker.

Not only did she know where they would come from, but she was even able to predict where they would run to, which was why she got such a scary nickname.

“Okay. I’m going first! 『Gae Bolg』!”

Huuuk, Gaeryong’s forearms expanded, and threw a spear after checking the map.

Did he just throw the spear into the rippling sea?

Paak-!

“Kiriririt”

It wasn’t that.

“Isn’t this a great map?! It’s awesome!”

The ruffed lizard got hit as if throwing itself to the spear that was thrown toward the sea.

As much as the movement prediction was accurate, it also showed Gaeryong’s ability to throw accurately toward the prediction point.

“Cough, bald Panda-nim? Are you going as well?”

“Of course.”

“Hyung, Pei Wu-nim is going over there as well, so let’s team up.”

Bald Panda, was a martial artist with pure white powder on his face and black makeup only on his eyes. Warming up next to him was a bald user as well.

“Pfft- t-the two of you are-”

“What? This isn’t a shave, it’s a customization! I actually have a lot of hair! Cough, are you ready?『Mirror Injection』!”

Paaaat-!

The bald user who insisted that it was a customization gestured toward the air.

What stuck out from the hem of his loose clothes was a bright red mirror. The user moved toward the mirror as if dancing.

『Swift Talisman』,『Reinforcement Talisman』,『Barrier Talisman』!” Hwiik, hwiik!

The bright red mirror scattered in the air gathered and scattered in a certain shape.

While other users were amazed, asian users, including Leeha and Kijung, were able to immediately recognize what it was.

“It’s a talisman?!”

“This is my first time seeing it. As expected, he is worthy of his name ‘Taoist Mu’……

There was no yellow paper, but the bizarre patterns were exactly those drawn on the amulet!

The talisman of the outsider; ‘Taoist Mu’ glowed as it wrapped around the body of ‘Bald Panda’ and himself.

“Let’s go!”

“Not bad.”

paat, paat-! The two users jumped overboard in an instant.

“Oh, ohh!? What are you doing!”

“Crazy, if you fall in the middle of this, I won’t be able to save you-”

The cries of worry and concern soon turned into relief and admiration.

Papapaapa–!

With a huge splash of water.

“There’s no need to save us.”

Bald Panda and Taoist Mu ran towards the lizards running on the sea.

However, it wasn’t just the two of them. In the Blue Marlin, Pei Wu and Taoist Baeju jumped out and ran on the sea….

“Panda!”

“Pei Wu-nim!”

Two people who were only around 170cm tall were running towards the ruffed lizards that were over 5m tall, but they did not seem anxious.

“Water running is our specialty! 『Gale Wind』!”

『Gale Wind』!”

The two martial artists, who were running on the water, crossed each other and sped towards the ruffed lizards.

(To be continued…)
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 “Kiriririt- Kyaaa!”

“Kya, kyaaaa-!，’

The lizards spread and howled, but they were not on land.

Even for monsters, it was impossible to suddenly slow down or change direction on water.

If they were not careful, they might fall into the deep sea.

“And that’s exactly what we are after. 『Heavy Weight』.”

『Heavy Weight』!”

The two martial artists drew a talisman in the air as they ran over the heads of the marine lizards, drawing their attention.

Booom-!

There was no change from the outside.

Pei Wu and Bald Panda were still agile.

“Hap!”

“Haat-!”

However, after the talisman took effect, the marine lizards that touched them did not feel the same.

“Kirit?”

“Kat-!? Kyaaaaa-rururuk……”

The effect of the skill 『Heavy Weight』 was to increase the weight of the target by 50 times when they touched another living being while maintaining the movement of the target itself.

This was because the light steps of Pei Wu and the Bald Panda, whose weight has increased more than 50 times in an instant, are no longer light at all.

It wasn’t even an attack, it was just a step on the head, and with each step, the marine lizards sank into the sea. The four people’s coordinated play, which made use of the characteristics of the sea while showing movements like they were on land, was fantastic.

*** “Kijung-ah.”


“Huh?”

“……Wouldn’t it be weirder if we can’t go to the New Continent with these members?”

“That’s right.”

Leeha, who had hastily loaded the magazine at the first appearance of the monsters, did nothing but look at his surroundings with a blank expression.

Moreover, Kijung, who was completely incapable of range attacks, even felt that he was unnecessary.

“Why are you just loitering? We must not rest either.”

“That’s right, Kay. We can’t lose, right?”

Their naggers approached them. Leeha’s nagger was Kidd, and Kijung’s nagger was Hyein.

“Kidd? What do you mean loiter.”

“Hyung-nim? You’re a sage, are you allowed to loiter like that?”

Leeha and Kijung shook their head, but Kidd and Hyein responded with laughter.

“That’s why I talked to Kidd just now. Kidd-nim, are you ready?”

“My gun needs preparation.”

Hyein raised his staff and began casting a skill. Kidd nodded as he looked.

‘Ready? These two?’

Leeha knew better that they were not people who would just stay still while watching other users move.

But what have they prepared?

Strictly speaking, it was no exaggeration to say that Kidd and Hyein only met each other today.

Leeha was curious about what plans the two people, who had passed each other several times, including the natural games, but had never spoken to, had come up with.

While Leeha was contemplating over their combination, Hyein’s casting had just finished.


“Okay. Then I will fly you to them. 『Reverse Gravity』!”

Pang-! As if being shot, Kidd’s body flipped over and flew into the sky. It was a huge force as if throwing a person.

“Uwaaaaah?! Kidd?!”

“Hyung-nim! If you do something like that-”

“That’s our strategy. I need to focus, so can you please step aside for a moment?”

Light purple particles were absorbed by Sage Hyein’s body.

‘Right. There’s no way it’s just flying. Hyein is a master of space magic.’

Leeha swallowed dryly as he watched Kidd, who was flying in the air, and Hyein, who was casting.

Reversing gravity and launching it into the sky.

What about casting space magic again after that?

『Space Grab』.”

Hyein finished casting by lowering his staff to the ground. Kwaak!

Kidd, who flew in the air, came to a shaky halt as if he had been caught by an invisible hand.

Grab? However, it was different from the grab magic that Leeha thought. To simply stop, the ‘Hold’ magic was enough.

Sage Hyein was indeed the number one person in Middle Earth when it came to spatial skills.

“Huu, now! Here I go, Kidd-nim!”

Hyein began to slowly tilt his staff forward.

“No way……”

“What…… this magic…” Leeha and Kijung were naturally flustered.

How should they react after seeing Kidd’s body, which was floating in the air slowly, toward the direction the staff tilted?


“Isn’t that some kind of claw machine?!” Controller: Hyein, claw: Kidd?!

However, Kidd was on a different level from a powerless claw crane.

When Kidd, who was held by space magic and had a comfortable expression on his face, flapped his coat, what he did was an achievement that could not be compared to that of a flimsy doll.

“Poor beasts of the sea, unable to stop or even jump to this point.

-”

“Kyaaa-”

“-I hope you sleep comfortably on the ocean floor.”

Tadaaaaa——!

Before the long continuous gunshot sound could even end, five marine lizards fell to the bottom of the ocean. Plop, plop, plop

“Huuu…”

Kidd lightly blew out the smoke coming from the 『Crimson Geckos』 cylinder.

He seemed satisfied with his act.

“Crazy. What did you-”

Baaaaang——–!

“Waaa, what was that?!”

“It’s Luger.”

Kijung was startled by the sudden explosion coming from the Blue Marlin and the spray of water rising like a fountain from the distant sea, but Leeha was calm.

As if claiming that he would not recognize anyone who is more active than him, Luger showed off his firepower as a player on the Blue Marlin just as much as Bailephus and Alexander in the air.

‘We have the hero’s descendant ‘Doctor Doom’ on our side who could monitor the monsters, but who plays that role on their side?’

Many of the marine lizards that came close have already died.

However, a huge number of them were approaching from a distance again, and the monsters that Luger shot were precisely that group.

Even Leeha, who used mana clairvoyance, could only see faint shaking, so it would have been difficult for Luger to see and shoot.

‘Well, someone would have done it anyway. Everyone demonstrates their strengths in unexpected places.’

Leeha shook his head.

‘There isn’t enough time to pay attention to who was active on ‘that ship’ and who was active on ‘this ship’.

“Navigating has become so much easier because of the oracle. Captain Drake-nim!”

“Starboard, steer the helm!”

“Yes sir!.”

Phew.

Drake shouted at the pirate user holding the helm.

As if he was already familiar with communicating with Drake, the user steered the helm.

Uooon- Puuuuuu- palsa!

Meanwhile, a loud sound came underneath the ship.

Bang, bang, bang—-!

Another pirate user from Kraven went down to the gun room and began commanding the NPCs.

All the users went to a place where they could show off their skills to the fullest and face off against sea monsters.

‘Even this……. There were those who stood out, but not all 40 actually performed to their full potential.’

The expedition was made up of 40 people, including 17 descendants of heroes and 23 tournament participants.

Excluding the Taoist brothers, Kidd, Luger, and Alexander, who stood out among these, it means that other users are dealing with the sea monsters thinking about efficiency like mechanical work.

‘The only thing that stood out was the unique combination of skills and job compatibility, and they didn’t actually use special skills.’

Not a single one of them revealed ‘lethal’ skills at all.

For now, all Leeha could do was use mana clairvoyance, lift his Black Bass, and shoot one after another.

It was proof that all other users were also conserving their skills, just as Leeha was conserving his skills such as the multiheaded shot.

Baaaaang—–!

After shooting one shot, Leeha pulled the bolt again and found a user near him.

“Huh? Fernand-ssi? What are you doing here?”

“……This doesn’t make sense……”

“What?”

Had another sea monster appeared again?

Leeha tilted his head, but jerked his body! Fernand’s expression was completely different from what he expected.

“How- how can they be so strong! It couldn’t even be compared to the first expedition! Wahaha! Oh god! The sea monster, marine lizard, were only 3 to 4 meters high when I came on my first expedition. This time, I was nervous because they were as high as 5m! What about their numbers? Did you know how many we have killed now? This is crazy, everything is crazy!”

“Ah, I-is that so?”

Seeing Fernand’s eyes sparkling and his body trembling, Leeha quickly lifted the Black Bass.

There was only one thought that came into his mind.

‘I can’t deal with Fernand in that state!!’

However, it was already too late.

As if he finally found someone to express his feelings, fernand began to run around and held Leeha’s arm as Leeha tried to shake him off.

“Do you know what their characteristics are? I couldn’t take a closer look because there hadn’t been a ‘guy’ that had come close yet, but those 3 to 4-meter sea monsters were 230! And the 5m ones must have been at least level 240! Awwww, I told them to not let a single one approach, but now I almost want to ask them to let one get close!”

“Keu, that- please let me go-”

“As of now, the only sea monsters that are there are the marine lizards, and they are the lowest-leveled sea monsters I know! Still, I think this expedition will be a success!”

Biii, biiiiik——!

Between Fernand’s uproar and the activities of the expedition members, the screech of the ‘scout’ was heard after a while.

“There’s no more monster approaching! It will be over once you deal with the monsters you are dealing with now! Waah! This is so amazing!”

It was a loud announcement signaling the end of the first battle. The new continent expedition team literally dealt with the marine lizards without getting the New Serpent and the Blue Marling any scratch.

Just by looking at Fernand’s wild reaction, they could tell what they had accomplished.

“Isn’t this a big deal?”

“We only have to go like this for 60 days? Let’s do it again Let’s reorganize the logout rotation! Instead of 4 groups with ten people each, we should do two groups with 20 people each!”

“Thank you all for your hard work! I will use HP and MP recovery magic, so everyone please come to the main mast~!”

“Nice, as expected, you are the best, ‘Saint’!”

The atmosphere became noisier when the skill of ‘Saint’ Raphaella, a Minis user, whose head was blasted by Leeha, was cast.

‘They really are great users. But that means the monsters are different than before……. Is it a setting where Bluebeard passed by and did something?’

In the meantime, the only one who did not let go of his worries was Leeha. How could he like it?

Bluebeard, a Demon King’s Fragment, must have passed through this sea.

Leeha thought that there was no way Bluebeard would just pass by.

‘Still, it was everyone’s first time working together, so I guess it’s good news that they did pretty well.’

The first sea monster, the ‘weakest monster’ emerged on the way to the new continent. Confident shouts came out one after another from the two ships that had dealt with the marine lizards that were around level 230 or higher

“I caught the most, so I am first, Alexander!”

“That’s funny. What kind of calculation does not include what Bailephus caught.”

“Because it’s not your skill!”

It was a fun first hunt for everyone except Luger, who insisted that he was number one.

(To be continued…)
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 “Ha Leeha-nim, is everything okay?!”

“Yes! Nothing beyond the mast!”

Aside from the raid on the first day, the voyage was very smooth.

Since the food ingredients were packed for 100 days, which was much longer than Fernand’s expected voyage period of 60 days, there would be no shortage of food or other items.

‘Most of the items were for NPCs anyway, and the users just need to keep their stamina from falling.’

Now the sun was shining on the sixth day of sailing, and at the same time, users who had logged out began to return.

“Group 2 is back! Everyone from group three, go to bed~!”

10 people each, with approximately 10 hours in reality. In other words, their time to restore their physical strength in reality was equivalent to 2 days in Middle Earth, similar to the rotation that Leeha devised to protect the king with Shin Nara before.

On the first day, everyone was together to get used to sailing, and from the second day onwards, the log-out rotation started right away.

Leeha had been placed in the 4th group which was the last group. The 4th group had the greatest physical burden because they had to rest last in the first rotation, but this was because Leeha wanted to do so.

Of course, the reason was simple.

The closer the ship got to the new continent, the stronger the sea monsters would become.

Before that, Leeha wanted to clear one more quest.

『Kyu!』

“Ah〜? Blaugrunn-ssi? Now you’re almost as alert as me?”

『Kyuuu!』

Leeha laughed as he watched the bronze dragon snort with an expression of natural wonder.

The reason why he wanted to be in group 4 and was always on the main mast.

“About two nautical miles ahead! A huge stain is found under the sea! I think I saw it a few days ago. It’s a long one.”

“What? Long?”


“Yes. Maybe.”

Fernand tilted his head in surprise, but Leeha didn’t even look at him.

He placed the Black Bass on the ledge of the crow’s nest and began adjusting the clicks quickly.

“Are you talking about the giant moray eel you saw a few days ago? That-”

“Ah! Are you sure it is around level 250?”

Hoooo…….

Leeha asked a question to Fernand and took a deep breath.

‘Joint Fixation: Lower Body, snipe, calm Mind’,

Haaaa…….

“Why are you asking as if you are going to deal with it?! With its size, it will traverse two nautical miles in no time! I’ll get the people ready first-”

Baaaaang—-!

“Heup?!”

A small spray shot up on the surface of the sea about two nautical miles, 3.7 kilometers, from the mast of the New Serpent.

“Ha-Ha Leeha-nim?”

Shaaaaaa…….

At the same time, white light emanated from Leeha’s body.

“Ah, I guess that guy isn’t level 250. Tsk…. I have dealt with the giant stain!”

Leeha’s efforts to clear Black Bass’ quest did not stop.

This was also the reason why the voyage to the new continent went smoothly for 5 days.

‘It’s an opportunity made in heaven! Damn it.’


Even though his level went up, Leeha was extremely disappointed.

It was because completing the Black Bass’ fifth quest was more important than immediately raising one level.

However, although it was regrettable, there was no reason not to take the stat. Leeha opened his character window and sighed.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer/ Level: 177 (0%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 109

HP: 5,970(4,179)

MP: 1,355

Stats: Strength 334(+249)

Agility 2,757(+918)

Intelligence 148(+97)

Constitution 215(+122) Mind 52(+42)

Remaining Stat points: 5

Leeha went all in on agility without even looking at it.

The ability to discover an enemy and hit the discovered enemy was also affected by the agility, so there was no need to consider anything else.

‘Shooting and hitting the target itself was due to my skill with the combat assistance system turned off……. There clearly was an additional correction based on stats. Even now, it’s about the size of a giant moray eel, so I guessed it right. If it was the size of a harpy, it wouldn’t have been a problem.’

Black Bass’ 5th quest was to shoot monsters that were level 250 or higher from 3.5km away!!

It was not an exaggeration to say that the level of difficulty was extreme.

Although it was not affected by the wind direction or speed, it was still difficult just aiming at the target.

Most importantly, the first challenge was to find a place that meets the conditions.


‘In that respect, the current voyage is just perfect. There is a mast to secure the view. There’s nothing to call ‘terrain’ curves around. Moreover, if I exclude the marine lizards, sea monsters are huge and their level is high!’

They were not just 10m, 15m in size.

The users were so surprised when they so the ‘giant moray eel’, the first sea monster they saw after the marine lizard.

Something suddenly came to Leeha’s mind.

“There are no more monsters? Ugh, my body is itching.”

Kijung waved the legendary sword given by Leeha into the air.

“You’re itching. Only Kijung-ssi. No one else. In my knowledge.”

“Kiskis, I heard that there was no one playing on the other ship. As expected of our guild master.”

“T-that- it’s not like I didn’t do it because they didn’t want to!”

As Bobae and Biyemi laughed and joked, Kijung was embarrassed.

On the day the marine lizard appeared, they were the ‘only’ ones who did not catch a single one from New Serpent and Blue Marlin.

Tank users didn’t even get the chance to tank, let alone attack, so it was only natural for them to become the butt of the joke.

“He really got picked on for no reason. Kijung should have been left behind.”

“Heu, don’t be like that to Master Kay. Since the tanker is in the center, drake and the other NPCs can move around with peace of mind.”

“Eh?! It’s a shame that Jin Gonggong-ssi is so kind. Pretend you don’t know and make fun of him. If you don’t make fun of him at times like this, he won’t be able to make fun of you.”

Leeha was about to come over and make fun of Kijung, but when the giant Jin Gonggong stopped him with a simple smile, and he lost his energy.

“Thank you, Jin Gonggong-ssi! Would you like to join our guild? As expected, the only person taking my side is Jin Gonggong-ssi. I don’t even know if Leeha hyung is really my cousin or my enemy.”

Kijung hugged Jin Gonggong’s arm and clung to him.

Among human users, he was quite tall, but he was incomparable to the giant race.

Kijung, who was snuggled up next to Jin Gonggong, looked like a child.

He was over 180cm tall, and all the users around him burst into laughter at his ridiculous(?) appearance.

“Huhu, there’s definitely a good atmosphere around Ha Leeha-ssi.”

Other users approached them as they laughed.

Sage Hyein and a female user next to him wearing a cloth covering her eyes. Leeha recognized them right away.

“Ah, Hyein-ssi! And…… the oracle-”

“Doctor Doom!”

“The skill you used before was really great!”

“But your eyes- Are you able to see in front of you?”

Bobae and Kijung were amazed when they saw her, and the other users around them also murmured.

Amid all the commotion, Leeha was the only one who called her name correctly.

“-Rubini-nim, right? It’s my first time meeting you, but I couldn’t say hello properly. Nice to meet you.”

“Yes. It’s been a while since I last saw you, Ha Leeha-nim.”

Leeha didn’t worry too much about how she looked ahead.

This was because she greeted him while looking directly in his direction, and he was more concerned about the other thing she said.

“Huh? It’s been a while? Have we met before?”

“Ha Leeha-ssi~? I will tell Nara.”

“No, w-wait- I don’t remember?!”

Rubini smiled when Leeha got flustered. Hyein laughed behind her.

“It must have been during the national war, right Rubini-nim?”

“That’s right, Hyein-nim. At that time, I detected a strange movement in the Marching Plains, and I investigated for several days. At that time, I saw Ha Leeha-nim in my ‘map’.”	

Leeha noticed the nuance in her words.

‘Strange movement’, ‘investigate’.

If she was from Fibiel, she wouldn’t have bothered saying something like that.

“Oh- sorry. At that time I was in a hurry, so I apologize if I shot your head or caused you to die by shooting at a painful area-”

“Pft, no. It’s okay. Because I didn’t die. Until then, you were moving within my detection range. After seeing Ha Leeha-nim move, I thought Minis would lose, so I didn’t participate in the national war after that.”

Fortunately, Leeha did not need to worry (?) that he might have blown her head. But her remarks were quite amiss. To Leeha and everyone.

‘It was at least 800 meters of shooting on the plain of the march. There were several instances that the units were on km. But I was still in her detection range?’

This was a distance that could not be captured with a simple mana detection skill.

What made Leeha even more surprised was that she even predicted that Minis would be defeated based on that move alone.

‘Predicting’ the movement of monsters or NPCs was simple in Middle Earth’s system. It just read the data that had already been inputted.

However, predicting the win or loss of a complex national war was not something that could be done simply because one’s job was an oracle.

Her ability to think in big numbers would have made her an oracle, a second human-demon war hero’s descendant.

‘Speaking of the national war, shouldn’t I also apologize to Saint Raphaela? Ugh, after all, she died by my hands and now she’s in the same boat as me.’

Looking at the female healer chatting with other users on the other side of the ship, Leeha had mixed feelings.

Still, it was unavoidable to maintain smooth relations for the expedition to the new continent. Someday, he will have to approach her.

“Uh, then how can I help you……?”

“We don’t really need anything. Rubini said she wanted to meet the expedition members, so I came to introduce her to you.”

“Ah! Yes. They’re all good people. Rubini-nim, please have a cup of tea and talk.”

When Leeha gently offered his sit, Bobae’s eyes became sharp.

Muttering, ‘I should tell this to Shin Nara.’, made Leeha and Kijung uncomfortable, but everyone knew that Leeha did not have any selfish intentions.

“Ah, perhaps, does Rubini-nim know? There’s a user on that ship who plays a similar role to you, right? Do you know-”

Chwaaaaa! Kiiiiiit—!

“Oy, what a surprise!”

As Leeha was about to ask a question, an animal he had never seen before jumped between the new serpent and blue marlin and let out an ultrasonic sound-like wave.

“What is that? It’s not even a dolphin-”

“Kiskis, doesn’t it look like a summon from the summoner aboard blue marlin? They are supposed to be a hero’s descendant as well. They could summon from land, sea, and air-”

As Biyemi was about to answer Leeha’s question, fernand, who had been examining the charts in the cabin, kicked down the door and jumped out.

“P-p-prepare for battle! Prepare for battle! A giant moray eel is currently approaching from the bottom of the sea! There are two of them!”

(To be continued…)
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 “Giant moray eel?”

“It’s a huge sea monster! I just heard a whisper from the summoner- they are exactly below the ships, and they will definitely surface and attack the underside of the ship! Damn it!! I can’t believe we got caught from below.”

Fernand’s expression was not good. It was due to the fear that had already been experienced.

“Uh, then, w-what should we do? Should we attack?”

“Under the ship? How do we catch them if they are under the ship?”

Fernand’s shout quickly spread to the users.

It was not simply a battle between ships.

As the expression “Sea Monster” suggested, these monsters could breath and move freely even underwater.

They were on a ship that was capable of attacking and defending from all sides, however it was still a ship. It could not withstand an attack from below!

‘Damn it! Should we have made something similar to a mine?’

It was an item that he had been thinking about but couldn’t make due to time constraints.

Leeha opened his bag and counted the number of bombs he had.

“Then when will they surface? When are we going to attack?”

“No, we still can’t see them! There, druid-nim! Can’t you transform into something like a fish?”

“Something like a salmon is possible- but what do you mean?”

It was Rubini, who was sitting next to Leeha, who stepped forward once more amidst the confusion of the chattering users.

“I will map it.”

Grains of mana entered her body and were transferred to her crystal ball. Photographing the location of the monsters on a holographic map?

‘No, it won’t work below the surface. Maps are only two-dimensional-’

Before Leeha could finish his thoughts, Rubini had already finished casting.


『Three-dimensional scanner』?

“Ah…”

It wasn’t just a map.

The detailed shape of the ship floated on the sea surface, the rolling sea, and two lumps bobbing deep below the sea surface!

“Ah?! What!”

“Oh……. It’s that big”

“This is our ship, right? Is that the Blue Marlin?”

The gathered users could not contain their astonishment.

Just how big was the ship? It was a long and large adventure ship that was as long as most ships of the line.

“N-no matter how short they are, aren’t they more than three times longer than this ship?”

“What about thickness? They are thicker than this ship!”

The giant moray eels, which were about 150 meters long and 20 meters wide, were large enough to overwhelm the users with just a hologram.

“Then- if those monsters attack from underneath…”

When it came to battle, all the thoughts of the users spun, however, no one was able to come up with a clear solution.

『How do I catch it?』

‘Into the water? No. There’s nothing more stupid than shooting a gun underwater.’

It was impossible to move for Leeha.

Throw a bomb? The fuse would die.

Magic? In the first place, their location was under the ship. They can’t be targeted.

“Kikis, in a sea like this, it’s no use releasing poison…”


Even Biyemi couldn’t help but click his tongue in regret.

“Uwaaah! In times like this, the best thing to do is run away! Because fighting isn’t the only answer! No, this cannot be called running away. That- what do you say, captain Drake?”

“……If you think about naval battles, it’s about taking advantage of the wind. Moving the ship to catch a better wind and shoot from a better position.”

“Right, right. Once you speed them up, pull them off, spread the distance, and come near sea level! Wouldn’t it be okay to shoot whatever the marksman over there shoots?”

Even in the wind, there was a top and a bottom. That’s what Kraven’s ‘Hook’ wanted to say.

First of all, moving to a good position for fighting is the basics of naval battles.

Other users had no choice but to agree with that opinion.

At least for them, they couldn’t think of a better move. Except for one person.

“……There’s no need for that.”

“Huh? Oh! You-”

Next to Hook, a girl with silky blue hair walked toward Leeha.

The deck on the New Serpent became quiet.

“Oppa. Ear.”

“Uh, oh?”

Ram Hwajung tugged on Leeha’s sleeve.

It would have been okay to just whisper, but she was a bold girl who dared to bring her face close to Leeha’s.

“……Is that possible?”

“Yes.”

And the girl’s proposal was bolder.

“150m? A 150m monster?”


The same thing happened at the Blue Marlin.

Luger unconsciously loaded a bullet into his 『Cobalt Blue Python』

“Crazy. How do you catch that?”

“According to Fernand, they have a high attack, but weak defense. He said that if we just target their weakness, we can get through without any damage.”

“So how do we do that? The sea monsters are underneath the ship, from underneath the ship! You know that means one of us has to dive into the water and fight, right? I heard those things are targeting the underside of the ship.”

Upon hearing Alexander’s words, the users of Blue Marlin became even more sensitive.

“Is there a magic that could make breathing underwater possible? If so, I will go down there and deal with them.”

“My talisman could work, but it has a short duration. It will be hard to deal with two 150m long monsters by yourself-”

“You can do it with dolphin-shaped sculptures but- Your body will turn into a dolphin’s. It will seal your kicks…

Pei Wu stepped forward, but even the world’s greatest martial artist could not do much.

The skills of Daoist Mu and Sculptor Rodin were not enough to enable him to fight underwater.

“Or we could make the seawater evaporate for a short time should I do it? I-”

“T-That’s not possible! If we do that, the ship will definitely suffer damage, and we can’t handle it. It would be like burning all of the straw to burn the bed bugs.”

Another descendant of a hero with the same profession as Ram Hwayeon, a ‘Flame Mage’, created flame from his fingertips, but Shin Nara quickly stepped in to stop him.

“Hmm.…. Bailephus.”

“I heard.”

When Alexander opened his mouth, the gold dragon, which was in his human form, nodded.

“Heung, what method did you hear?”

Chiyou looked at Alexander with an interested expression.

He didn’t bother to answer her and called the other users.

“Hold on tight everyone. From now on, Bailephus will launch the ship.”

“What-”

shwaaaaaak—–!

Before anyone could ask, Bailephus had already changed into his dragon form.

Launch the ship?

They immediately understood what it meant. Because it was literally launching the ship into the air.

“Waaaaaaa!? It really makes my stomach queasy!”

“This size?”

“T-that ship over there is floating too!”

“Wow…… No, if it’s going to be like this shouldn’t we have to launch the boat from the start?”

“That’s impossible. Do you know how big the two ships are?.”

“W-well, I was just saying……. If that was possible, we wouldn’t have gone by ship in the first place.”

The users had questions mixed with admiration, but when Alexander added those words, they were unable to ask any more questions.

“He’s a great reptile. But what are you saying with this?”

Luger snorted as he watched the ship gradually rise 3m, 4m, and 5m into the air, flowing seawater.

He knew it was floating. What’s next? Alexander, who was on the Blue Marlin, raised his hand and pointed to a place without saying a word. All eyes of the expedition members turned to that point.

The sight of the New Serpent, floating just like the Marlin, with a blue-haired person falling down from the side of its deck, caught everyone’s eyes.

“Oh! There- someone is jumping!”

“Who…… Ram Hwalung!?”

“Why is she falling from there-”

Paaaaaaa—–!

“-Kkaak!”

Shin Nara closed her eyes tightly and turned her head.

What seemed to explode from Ram Hwajung’s falling body was a blue light that was so eye-chilling that the mana that flowed into her body spread out in an instant.

“R-right, I have heard that! During the national war- the way Ram Hwajung fought in the national war!”

Crack, craaack……!

One person shouted, still unable to open his eyes and only hearing an unfamiliar sound.

Ram Hwajung fought against the Kraven Navy on Dike Beach during the national war.

How did Fibiel, who was no match in naval battles, last so long against Kraven?

Cra-cra-crack———

“The sea- the sea…!”

“Oh my!”

“How much mana does it take to do that?”

Whether they were a hero’s descendant or a tournament participant, they were at least outsiders in Middle Earth! In addition, many of the members of this expedition were rankers, but all of them had their eyes enlarged to more than twice their normal size.

“Uwah, kuhahaha! Yes, that’s it! I wondered why that ice witch princess didn’t appear! Even I, who grew up drinking only seawater, couldn’t handle that kid! That little princess is on the same team and she’s not appearing!”

Burke, who was in charge of ship ship operations on the Blue Marlin, laughed heartily.

Looking down at the pale blue frozen sea.

“Luger. Get ready. It’s Ha Leeha over there.”

Alexander gave simple instructions. Luger instinctively knew what to prepare.

“I see. That’s what he heard. Damn it, don’t tell the Three Musketeers what to-”

Click-!

Luger also walked to the end of the deck and lifted up his 『Cobalt Blue Python』.

On the same spot, on the other the ship, Leeha shook his 『Black Bass』 and laughed.

“Luger! As expected, you are good at looking for a spot.”

“Don’t say the obvious. If they were to break the ice with their head and jump under the ship, the best place to shoot would of course be here.”

“Kilkil, Alexander, because of his personality, he probably didn’t say much, but he’s quick to notice. Very good.”

“Don’t judge me, I fight better than you.”

As Luger murmured and looked down, Leeha focused as well.

The frozen sea was still visible beneath the ship. As if a chunk of ice was floating at the North Pole, the sudden chunk of ice made the viewer bewildered.

‘It’s even wider. Of course, the moray eel or something has to break through and come up, so it’s made to be thin, therefore it is also wider…. But does it make sense to freeze a 50m diameter area?’

However, Leeha did not know that this was also easy.

In the national war against Kraven, it was Ram Hwajung who made the land forces run by connecting ships with ice.

It could be said that in all of the three kingdoms, Ram Hwayeon was the most proficient at using ice.

Although Ram Hwajung was incredible in terms of mana manipulation and specs in Middle Earth, the reason she was called a ‘genius’ was because of her ideas.

“It’s coming. Sea level 8m, 6m, 4m-”

Leeha heard Rubini’s countdown behind him.

Ram Hwajung had already used fly magic and was back on the deck.

At that point, Leeha was able to see. Black stains crept up from beneath the thin frozen white film.

“That’s the head!”

“Waah, no way……. Doesn’t it look like ink was spilled in the sea?”

The overwhelming large size was clearly visible even though it was below the surface of the water.

“-lm, now-”

kwachachachak, changgranng——-!

With a loud noise, ice powder flew through the air.

What caught their eyes even more than the ice powder sparkling in the sunlight was the giant moray eel with its black shiny body!

Not knowing that the ship had been lifted into the sky, the sea monster jumped out of the water with all its might, believing that the ‘ice’ created by Ram Hwajung was still a ship-like object.

(To be continued…)
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 “Waaaaa, what a ginormous teeth-”

“This is no time to admire! If we don’t deal with it quickly-”

“Shh. You don’t have to do that, Bobae-ssi.”

Bobae trembled at the sight as she watched the creature continuously pull its long body from the sea into the air as if it were noodle soup

“What?”

Kijung quietly reassured Bobae and pointed at Leeha.

A rope was tied to his waist, his body completely pulled out, and the muzzle of the Black Bass was pointing down.

“When to shoot to inflict the greatest damage on the target? Where to aim to kill the creature in one shot….? Those calculations have already been completed.”

“But- isn’t it huge? Moreover, Leeha-ssi said he had never seen that monster befor-”

“He can do it.”

The moment Kijung finished speaking, Luger’s mouth twitched slightly.

A noise loud enough to shake the two ships sounded simultaneously from the New Serpent and Blue Marlin.

Baaaaaaaaang——-!

“That’s my Leeha hyung.”

Compared to Luger, who used a skill, Leeha did not use the Multi-Warhead Shot. He literally found the optimal point.

Before arriving in the New Continent, Leeha also wanted to raise his specs.

Beyond simple stats and skills, he must literally develop his abilities to deal with unknown variables.

The giant moray eel did not make any sound.

With more than 140m of their bodies under the thin ice, which had already risen 8m above sea level, the two sea monsters slowly fell back into the sea, turning gray.

Most of the expedition members were in a different state of shock from when they fought the marine lizards.


The gold dragon that launched the ship had long since been forgotten.

More than Ram Hwajung, who initially shocked them, were the two musketeers who killed the huge monsters in one shot.

“Pheeew……. Nice play, Ram Hwajung-ssi! Ah, fernand-ssi, what level did you say they are?”

“W-what you just caught is level 247. They are usually between level 240-250-”

“Ah, really? That’s amazing! It’s this big, and with such poor defense, isn’t it a shame that it isn’t level 250?”

The giant moray eel was no longer an object of fear.

They’ve caught sight of it over the past few days. Since its head was large enough to match its size, it was not difficult to hit it under the water.

‘No, I guess my skills have improved again in the meantime.’

The teeth of the moray eel, the size of Leeha’s body, were literally right under them.

Even if he had fired just a little later, if the ship had been damaged, he might have been hit as well.

It meant that Leeha had grown once more as a sniper by overcoming that crisis.

“Even though I knew that if you just cut off the head of a fish, it would die… .”

『Kyuuu, kyuu.』

“Ah. Shall we cut the meat from that corpse and eat it? I can’t eat raw fish, but I’ve heard of something like moray stew.”

『Kyukyukyu! Kyukyu!』

Flap, flap, flap!

Blaugrunn circled around Leeha’s head as he stood on the watchtower.

The strong reaction that always came out whenever the topic of food was mentioned made Leeha quite amused.

“They said that feeding drastically shortens the growth period, but I don’t know when Blaugrunn-ssi will become juvenile. Will it be possible before we arrive in the new continent?”

『Kyuu?』


“That’s it, that’s enough. Pretending to not understand again. Let’s go down. Heuheu, there are a lot of rare potions available as supplies, so I guess I should use them.”

Even at times like these, Leeha’s ability to conserve his wealth was outstanding.

On the sixth day of the voyage to the new continent, on the eighth day of the subsequent logout, and the tenth day of the expedition, there were no problems except for the occasional sea monsters.

For Fernand and the first expedition, the ‘biggest problem’ was the sea monsters, and in fact, the 40 carefully selected users from the continent neatly overcame that crisis.

Something slightly different happened to those users when it was about the 29th day into the voyage to the new continent.

“An abnormal object was found ahead! Is it a sea monster? The distance is approximately…… 1.7 to 1.8 nautical miles! There’s something floating and it doesn’t seem to be a giant moray eel.”

Leeha briefly reported.

Although he shouted quite loudly from the crow’s nest, no user, including Fernand, seemed nervous after hearing the sound.

It was because unless they attacked and came up from below the sea like the first giant moray eels did, they did not pose any particular threat.

‘After all bang! It will make a sound and they will say that it is caught again.’

Most users thought the same thing.

“Let me see, what is it~”

Leeha hummed a melody like an old man and adjusted the magnification of the Black Bass.

However, what caught Leeha’s attention was a slightly different type of creature.

“Hmm……. What? I can’t see it properly. Is it really just a dead fish?”

However, Leeha wasn’t able to see properly.

A common characteristic of a sea monster was its huge body.

1.8 nautical miles, about 3.5 kilometers away, if it was a sea monster, it should come in at a full scale….

‘Is it human-like? No, isn’t it slightly smaller than a human?’

Leeha tilted his head and looked at the mast of the Blue Marlin for a moment.


After Leeha started hunting giant moray eels, one person went up the Blue Marlin’s mast to keep tabs on Leeha, and there was only a certain person who would do such a thing.

Luger was there, holding his 『Cobalt Blue Python』 with an attitude that he would not go down unless Leeha did.

Leeha: Luger! Do you see that?

Luger: I know that there’s something. The reflection of the sea water’s light is different in that part.

Leeha: Huh, you have good eyes. Do you have a good hunch about it? Do you know what that is?

Luger: You idiot. If I had known, would I have stayed still? I would have already shot it.

Leeha: You’re not confident about it. Anyway, there’s something, but you don’t know that it is, right?

Luger: This bastard dares-

Leeha: Epepepe, isn’t the record for hunting giant moray eels so far ‘17’? Kilkil.

Luger: You, you- are so arrogant when you cowardly shoot from afar-

Leeha ignored Luger’s whispers and looked through the scope again.

Luger, who did not have a scope, would not be able to know the identity of the unidentified object better than Leeha. But by the nature of the fighter, and like a seasoned hunter, he knew that ‘something was there’.

‘It’s like that and then suddenly, bak! I don’t think it will…… attack while jumping. I will have to wait for the distance to narrow further first.’

Leeha lowered the Black Bass and looked around again with naked eyes.

He could feel the weight of Blaugrunn sleeping on his head, but Leeha just left it alone.

The fact that Blaugrunn did not react at all also shows that the object was not dangerous.

“Still, blaugrun-ssi thinks that my head must think it’s some kind of nest.”

After circling around and looking in all directions, Leeha fixed his body forward again.

The voyage was already on its 29th day. In just one more day, fernand’s expected voyage will be halfway through.

There was no problem until now. He was a little annoyed that there were so many sea monsters coming out, but…

During the voyage, Leeha raised two more levels.

He was now 179. Nevertheless, in terms of simple level figures, the lowest level among the expedition members was Leeha.

There were no users who complained about Leeha hunting and leveling up alone. That’s because Leeha was so thorough, and the sea monsters were killed before the expedition members discovered them.

‘It wasn’t as much to worry about as what Fernand-ssi said. No, users must have become incredibly strong.’

When the numbers became too large to be handled alone, other expedition members also took part in the battle seriously.

Fernand was surprised that every time the sea monsters came out, they became stronger and more numerous compared to the time of the first expedition, but there were only a few attacks that threatened the expedition.

‘Fernand-ssi is more surprising. Even though the level has increased and the numbers have increased, does that mean that monsters of that level can only be caught by using cannons according to the ship’s operation? I experienced it during the naval battle, but the cannons don’t fire forward or backward. They could only shoot to the side.’

If they didn’t get the direction right, they would never be able to catch the marine lizards that rushed at them like a pack of dogs in front of them or the giant moray eels that leaped out from below the sea surface.

Leeha had some respect for Fernand, who had already led the NPC fleet against such monsters when he had not even started playing Middle Earth yet.

Meanwhile, the ship continued to move forward, and the distance between the ship and the foreign object in its direction of travel gradually narrowed.

1.3, 1.2 nautical miles, the identity of the unusual object was finally revealed within the scope..

“Eh?! H-human! It’s a human! What I saw earlier is a human!” The human lay down as if fainted. It was already floating and looked like a corpse, but it had the shape of a human.

“Human?!”

“A human? User? No, npc?”

“No- it can’t be- can it? It can’t be Kraven user or NPC, and it’s even more outrageous that it’s the bodies of the members of the first expedition team.”

Kraven’s territorial waters were cleared on the first day.

There was no way that a regular user or NPC could bring a ship to their location. As even Fernand was flustered, the expedition members had no choice but to have even more doubts.

“Captain Drake! Shouldn’t we check?”

“……Hmm. Stop 0.3 nautical miles ahead, disembark the speedboat, and check.”

Ay, ay, sir!

“I will contact Alexander-ssi!”

The two ships, which were moving forward rapidly, folded their sails and began to gradually reduce their speed.

Burke and Alexander also decided that it was necessary to check if it was not a monster.

Fortunately, the sea was calm enough to operate the boat, and the pirate users of both ships steered their ship toward the floating body.

“Is it confirmed?”

Fernand got on the boat and asked Leeha next to him.

Leeha determined the identity of the target by alternating between his naked eye using eagle’s eye and scope.

“……Oh my……. S-since this is Middle Earth, I guess it would only be natural-”

“Why? What is it?”

If the object was about 500 meters ahead, observing it was a piece of cake. Leeha clearly saw.

“It’s human…… but not human.”

“Then?”

“Only the upper body is human.”

“Yes? Only the upper body?”

Fernand tilted his head.

However, Leeha’s explanation was accurate. The upper body was human. So what about the lower body?

“The lower body is…… a fish.”

Even Leeha who spoke was equally embarrassed.

The identity of the thing floating on the sea was that the ‘eagle’s eye’ was a mermaid.

*** “Wow, this is my first time seeing a mermaid.”

“Is it dead?”

“Even though she looks like a masculine type, her facial lines are pretty. I thought the scales on the bottom would look kind of creepy, but they match a lot better than I thought.”

“No, but doesn’t this thing breathe underwater? Shouldn’t we throw it back into the sea?”

“Someone get some water in a bowl!”

“Ice-”

“Waaaah! Ice magic won’t work!”

Even the personnel of the Blue Marlin came rushing over to the New Serpent.

With them surrounding her, the mermaid lay on the deck as if she were dead.

“Fernand-ssi?”

“No. Mermaid? What mermaid? This is definitely the right direction…… why is it like this?”

(To be continued…)
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 Fernand held a compass and a sextant and compared the current location with the charts from the first expedition.

A life form that had not been discovered even on the first voyage, which had already lasted about 50 days, was discovered in just 30 days? Fernand, who had already experienced an expedition, did not expect it.

“It’s not dead. It’s in suspended animation.”

It was an unexpected person who walked through the crowd of users and approached the mermaid.

“Captain Drake! Do you know anything about mermaids?”

“A little.”

Drake lifted his hat to look at the sky, then stretched out his index finger and pointed into the sky.

Although other users didn’t know, Kraven’s users suddenly started making a fuss.

“Uwah! What?! Why are you using ‘that’ on our ship-”

Rumble, rumble-!

The sky above the New Serpent immediately began to darken. Only then did other users know.

“S-storm? Did you cause this?”

“Drake, you, you bastard! What nonsense are you doing? Don’t you know that we are sailing without anchor?”

Drake’s deadly skill could unconditionally sink a ship.

Of course, the NPC and appointed captain of the New Continent expedition ship did not use it to sink his own ship.

“Clean fresh water is needed to awaken a mermaid from a state of suspended animation. Be quiet, burke.”

Baaang-!

As soon as a bolt of lightning struck the sea, rain began to pour from the dark cloud.

The rain literally fell only within a very limited area, not exceeding 1m beyond the New Serpent.

“……Mana Control.”


Ram Hwajung looked up at the sky and muttered to herself.

“He really is a named NPC. He could change a storm that would sink a ship into nothing more than rain like this?”

“Usually, it is harder to weaken magic…”

“It’s not easy to make it stronger either. Well, everyone here can do it to a certain extent.”

It was a mana control skill that impressed even ranker-level users. There was no one other than Ram Hwajung who could achieve this level.

“There is still a lot of drinking water, but there is no harm in gathering it. All sailors fill up your canteens! Let’s enjoy the captain’s blessing to the fullest!”

Even when the other users were busy looking at the mermaid, Kraven users who thought about navigation first started encouraging NPCs to fill up the drinking water.

About ten minutes passed after it started raining, and the mermaid’s finger finally twitched.

“Oh, he’s awake! He’s awake!”

“Drake-nim! Do mermaids also speak our language?”

“Why not? Isn’t it just like a monster?”

“A monster is a bit harsh. It would be better to think of it like a dwarf. Maybe a demi-human NPC.”

Drake didn’t say anything despite the fuss from the users, and gently squeezed the mermaid’s shoulder and shook it.

“Is it coming to its senses?”

“Cough…… cough, cough, cough! Ugh-”

Aaaaaaaaah!

The mermaid woke up coughing violently and started yelling as soon as it looked at its surroundings.

They didn’t know how long it had fainted, but it would not be able to regain its physical abilities immediately, and naturally being placed on the deck of an unknown ship and surrounded by unknown people, was bound to be scary.

“Uwaaaaah! Fishmen- f,fishmen, sea monsters- attack-”

“Fishmen?”


The male mermaid flapped his lower body and raised his hand.

The users were momentarily confused as they saw the particles of mana gathering at their fingertips in an instant, but nothing else happened.

“Rest easy, undine clan member.”

Kwak-!

Drake grabbed the hand and blocked the skill from being cast. Drake’s deep yet clear voice finally reached the mermaid’s ears.

It was around that time that the mermaid, who had been screaming in panic, calmed down.

However, not only Leeha but other users thought that it couldn’t be simply because of the ‘voice’.

‘He’s definitely a mermaid. Drake also described it as a mermaid. But as soon as the mermaid woke up, he said “Fishman.”

Besides, what is the undine clan?’

One word and one keyword were uttered by Drake and the mermaid.

There was no user present who did not know that this was a concept like a hint from NPCs that appeared only when users were nearby.

“Are you coming to your senses? Can you recognize me?”

The merman blinked as he looked at Drake.

The users frowned for a moment when they saw that there was an extra layer between his eyelids and the back of his eyes like a frog, but at least it seemed certain that the consciousness of the merman had returned.

“You- A-are you the son of the Sea God!? Banished to the human world- no, are you the sea god’s heir who…… went out to the human world?”

The sea god’s son? Sea God’s heir?

Other keywords entered the users’ minds. Leeha was fairly familiar with the word.

It was the NPC, not the user, who reacted more strongly to that keyword.

Burke yelled at the mermaid, clearly showing his displeasure.

“Sea god’s son! That’s the nickname those idiots from Kraven gave Drake to elevate him! How could you make such a foolish move in front of a born sailor-”


“I am no longer his son. Do not call me that, kin of the undine.”

Burke’s yelling quieted down in an instant.

*** “Wait- what? Drake, this guy-”

Burke’s face trembled, but he could no longer speak.

He looked like he didn’t know what to say!

It was the same for Kraven’s other marine occupation users.

They could not say anything in front of his calm face and serious voice.

“Ho, there was a quest called 『Drake’s Legend』 in the archipelago…… was that really true? A race called mermaids, which had never existed before, suddenly…

‘Hook’, a descendant of a hero of the second human-demon war, tilted his head and that was all users could do to react.

The only one who vaguely understood the situation was Leeha.

‘Ever since I got that achievement, no, ever since I got this coat, everything had been strange.’

The achievement was ‘Recognized by the Son of the Sea God’, and the name of the coat was ‘with the Blessing of the Sea God’.

He expected from the beginning that there would be something related to this keyword.

However, even Leeha thought it was a metaphor and not literally one.

‘Hook said he’d never seen a mermaid before. If so, it is highly likely that this is also a part of 『Phase 3』.’

At about that time, hook also thought something similar to Leeha and closed his mouth. However, many users have probably already noticed.

“I didn’t mean to deceive you, burke.”

“D-don’t be ridiculous! It’s not even funny! You’re being ridiculous!”

Drake took off his hat and bowed as he looked at Burke, who was spewing out random words.

It was a re-establishment of the relationship between the two NPCs who had been rivals their entire lives.

“You’re telling me that the guy I have been fighting with my Sailfish all my life isn’t human? Huh? Are you asking me to believe that?”

“I am human right now. We’ll talk about it again later.”

“This-”

Burke, who tried to swing his fist at Drake, could not get any closer. He was, in name and reality, the naval commander of Fibiel.

He was an NPC who could weigh whether the current situation or his own anger was more important.

‘If it were me, I would be upset, but…… I’m sorry, burke-ssi! This is more important right now, so please bear with me for a moment!’

Leeha looked at Burke for a moment with a sad expression, then looked around.

“Can you tell us what happened?”

“Of course…… young master-nim.”

“Just call me Drake.”

“B-but-”

“It’s okay.”

When Drake carefully reassured the mermaid, while everyone’s eyes and ears were focused on Drake and the merman, Leeha’s eyes looked elsewhere.

Leeha: Is that real?

???: From the first time we met his mana energy was different from that of other humans. However, I didn’t know that he was the son of the sea god.

Leeha: Wow……. What did it mean to be the son of the sea god?

A faster method than what can be achieved through conversation between the mermaid and Drake.

The person Leeha secretly whispered to was the ancient gold dragon.

Bailephus: The king of the Undines, the spirit of all water in the sea and waves. He is called the sea god.

Leeha: Then, that merman and Captain Drake are of the same species? Are you saying that he wasn’t just a member of the same race, but was ‘prince’? The Prince of the Sea?

Bailephus: According to what he said, it was like that ‘at one time’.

Because he was ‘right now’ a human.

Leeha was able to understand even what Bailephus didn’t say.

‘Drake, the Prince of the Sea.’

It seemed like it would make him laugh, but there was nothing wrong with the expression itself since the sea god was the king of the Undine clan, of the water spirits.

The mermaid muttered for a moment but quickly opened his mouth as if he could no longer resist Drake’s gaze.

“For some time now, we stopped being born-… no, we are still getting born, but the offsprings are not mermaids. They’re just- they are sea creatures that have grown limbs similar to human’s arms and legs…. And their purity is also very low.”

“Is that the fishman you mentioned earlier?”

“The sea god named them that way.”

Different thoughts circulated in the users’ minds. The same was true for Leeha, who received additional information from Bailephus.

‘The expression ‘to be born’…… I guess it’s probably a system where the water spirit turns into a mermaid.’

Leeha: Do water spirits become mermaids?

Bailephus: A spirit is essentially the element itself. Although they have no form, if they maintain a certain purity over a certain period of time, they will have a body suitable for each spirit. Here, the water spirits of the sea become undine, meaning waves, and are reborn as mermaids.

Leeha: Hmm, I roughly understand.

“What is it about those guys that you hate them?”

“……They can’t communicate. No, it doesn’t mean they don’t know words. It just meant that they were very violent and belligerent. From time to time mermaids stopped being born, the number of fish people rapidly increased and they revolted within the Dragon Palace.”

“Rebellion? That can’t be possible. Father, no, what is the sea god doing? Most importantly, it’s impossible for the people of such purity to be born, right?”

“Yes. The sea god also said the same thing. So he decided that there was a problem with “Septic tank” and went to fix it…… rather, the sea god-”

“What happened?”

It was an expression that did not appear even when Leeha was behind in the naval battle and when he aimed the Black Bass at Drake.

Looking at his distorted and anxious, the mermaid spoke her last words.

“-They became fishman.”

“……That can’t be possible. Is that possible?”

“This is unbelievable. The king of the undines has been contaminated?”

It was Bailephus who came out in as much bewilderment as Drake. The users carefully listened.

“Cough, that’s right. Please- please help me, I don’t know what happened to all the people running away from the fishmen. Maybe- all of this may have been to meet you. Please! Please come back to the Dragon Palace and save us, young master!”

The mermaid groaned and crawled across the deck, holding onto the hem of Drake’s pants.

Quick-witted users have already begun to get a feel for it.

Kijung: Ung-ah? I guess this is-

Kijung: Huh, it looks like an event. Aren’t you progressing through quests yet? Anyway, the fact that Fernand-ssi said that the sea creatures have become stronger seems to have something to do with it……. I guess that also means that the fishman or something was born.

Bluebeard must have done something. However, listening to the conversation between the mermaid and Drake, and having further information from Bailephus, Leeha was uneasy.

‘Even if it’s a quest…… what should I do?.

(To be continued…)
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 “What should we do?”

“The quest window hasn’t appeared yet, but it definitely feels like it will lead to a quest. We will have to make a choice.”

“It’s something that even Fernand-ssi, the guide, don’t know. And what? What? It’s definitely on the sea, but what else could we do?”

“It seems like it might be related to the Demon King’s Fragment. It might also have something to do with the monsters becoming stronger. Wouldn’t it be better to check?”

“We need to think carefully about our schedule. Speaking of the Demon King’s Fragment, what if this is also a trap to waste our time? Even at this very moment, Bluebeard may be awakening other Fragments of the Demon King in the new continent.”

“But… in addition, users could hold out somehow but NPC’s food ingredients need to last for 100 days.

. The problem may become serious if we stop somewhere.”

The users’ opinions varied.

Not only were there two big opinions about whether they should help or not, but even within that, different methods of what to do sprung up.

‘There is a clear possibility this happened to kill time as Faust did. Damn it, when you think like that, it suddenly becomes complicated, doesn’t it?’

There were users who bickered, and there were also users who tried to organize their thoughts.

The cabin of the New Serpent quickly became noisy as everyone had various thoughts and opinions according to their personalities,

“We have to go first. That must have not changed.”

“What?”

Leeha summarized the situation.

“It’s never too late to think about it as we go. We have only sailed for 29 days. If, as Fernand-ssi said, the voyage is approximately 60 days, we will be halfway across the sea by tomorrow. When we reach it. That’s when we will think about whether we should help the mermaids or not, but wouldn’t it be more important to move first and find a place to build the first mana tower?”

Rather than think of things that have yet to happen, Leeha talked about the quest they received and the things they had to do right now, and those words cleared the users’ minds.

He had been looking at the chart with his head down and finally raised his head.

“That’s right. Tomorrow is already the 30th day, it’s now time for flying monsters to appear too. It is not too late to decide on the mermaid-related quest when the quest window appears or the story progresses a little further. It is important to find an island on which to build a mana relay tower first.”

Of course, the mana relay tower could not be made to float on water.


They would arrive at the place that could be judged to be the midpoint of the Dawn Sea tomorrow, and was time to find the nearby island.

“Cough, but how do we find the island?”

“Was it a speed boat? Shouldn’t we take it and have people with flight magic scout it out?”

“I think it would be better for the druid, tamer, and summoner to use summons and find it quickly. The rest of us guard the ship.”

“What should we do, fernand-nim?”

Leeha managed to change the direction of the discussion related to the mermaid quest, but with so many people, it was unavoidable for things to be like this.

The users struggled to find an island to build a mana relay tower and asked Fernand, but Fernand was not sure as well.

“We have no choice but to find it first. I will give you a basic telescope, so if you find a small island, you can build a mana relay tower there-”

“Are you all idiots?”

While Fernand was also scratching his head and thinking, Kidd, leaning against the cabin wall, lifted his hat.

“Huh? Kidd? What are you talking about all of a sudden?”

With Leeha’s question, everyone’s attention focused on Kidd.

“There’s a ‘mermaid’ out there now. Are thinking of not getting information from the water spirit?”

“Ah……!”

“This is not the behavior of people who were worried about the treatment of mermaids just now-”

“Thank you, Kidd! Fernand-ssi! Just go and ask the mermaid! Even if we don’t go to their dragon palace and help them, we can at least use the information anyway!”

A mermaid was a pure water spirit that had become tangible.

According to Bailephus’ words, spirits were elements of the equivalent nature, the mermaid was, in other words, the sea itself!

Many other users did not yet understand the relationship between mermaids and water spirits.

However, anyone who asked Baileiphus about miscellaneous things was able to understand even Kidd’s few words.


Kidd also obtained information about mermaids through Baileiphus.

‘Did he get close to Baileiphus while pretending to be quiet? Anyway, I can’t let my guard down.’

Leeha saw Kidd smiling at him and smiled along with him. Kidd must have realized that Leeha obtained information through Bailephus.

“That’s right! As expected! This is why I like the Three Musketeers! Let’s go quickly and ask!”

When Fernand took the chart and went out of the cabin, users rushed to follow him.

19th day, one day before the appearance of flying monsters.

The members of the new continent expedition team, who learned about the new race and spirits called mermaids, could not hide their excitement and interest. And that excitement was shattered by one word from the mermaid.

“New continent?”

The mermaid tilted his head.

“Yes! Do you know anything about it? Oh, looks like there will be a landmass in about 30 more days-”

“No… I know what you’re saying-”

At the speed of this ship, we have already traveled for 30 days. We must be near Dragon Palace… There’s a small island nearby, but I have never heard of a continent?”

The first person whose face was distorted was Fernand.

“What… what do you mean? There is no new continent? No, that can’t be possible- I saw it clearly! Now, after about 50 days of sailing at this speed, at the end of it, beyond the fleets being completely destroyed, I definitely felt the energy of the earth! W-what about the seagulls? What about the seagulls-”

“… Uh- I mean… What you must have seen must have been an island. I said it’s a small island, but compared to the sea where we are. It’s not that small, but it’s definitely not a continent.”

The mermaid looked at Fernand with an expression of regret.

Although it wasn’t his fault, other users had nothing to say when they saw Fernand’s deep expression of frustration. They couldn’t. Anxiety permeated every corner of the New Serpent.

“No… no way…”

Fernand pulled out his hair. His jaw shook so much that his teeth made a clicking sound. The seriousness of the situation was enough to explain without even having to talk about it.

“Do you by any chance know the concept of a continent? Have you ever seen the continent of the humans?”


“I never saw it in person, but I learned it. We have a map comparing the size of the sea and the size of the human continent- At the current speed of this ship, it is approximately 30 days away in this direction, right?”

“Yes.”

“Yes. If that is called a continent, there is no continent 30 days further in the direction of the ship.”

“Then- then… Do you know where the midpoint of the Sea of Dawn is? Approximately where the distance between the human continent and the new continent-”

“I am a member of the wave clan, but I am a very low-level mermaid. I am still lacking knowledge of the whole sea…”

“A-ahh!”

Fernand could no longer speak properly. All he could do was open his mouth and moan like an idiot.

‘Crazy, what Fernand’s expedition discovered was not the new continent? Then how on earth is this expedition going?’

Leeha fully understood the seriousness of the situation. The mermaid’s last words was a death sentence for Fernand. No, it wasn’t just Fernand’s frustration. This plan itself was based on Fernand’s firm belief and accumulated experience.

In other words, it was as if the entire plan for this second expedition to the new continent was shaken to its core.

“Excuse me, what does this conversation mean? Are you saying that the expedition to the new continent won’t end in 60 days?”

One user asked, tilting his head. However, no one could get the answer out of their mouth. They tried to hide their anxiety.

“… If the people who were currently in the log-out rotation heard this, wouldn’t they think that they are getting pranked…?”

“How can you joke in this kind of situation, Kijung-ssi?”

Only Kijung expressed the severity of the situation with humorous words.

“Did Baileiphus-nim know? Or Hyein-ss… Still, they should know about space.”

“I have never been beyond the Sea of Dawn. I don’t know if Lord Bahamut would have known…”

“I don’t know either. I know that there will be coordinate values in calculations, but that is literally theoretical anyway… There’s a problem with mana and stability, so we can’t move around in space.”

Baileiphus and Hyein both shook their heads when Leeha asked the question.

After the conversation with the mermaid was over and the users had gone to their respective ships, the overall atmosphere was incredibly down.

Only Leeha moved from ship to ship to conduct additional expeditions.

Of course, the reason Leeha walked around like this was because Fernand was stretched out as if he were sick.

The user who worked hard and ran around the most to form the new continent expedition team was now at risk of being responsible for all failures.

‘The new continent is a place where even the ancient dragon had never gone to. It is so unreasonable to put the blame on just one person, fernand, for miscalculating like that. To put it bluntly, no NPC or users could have known.’

Of course, they couldn’t just wait for that to happen.

If it weren’t for Fernand’s experience in the first new continent expedition, where he barely found out information and turned the ship around thanks to the sacrifice of the continent’s resources and NPCs, he wouldn’t have been able to get this far.

Above all, no matter how much this situation was.

This was still a game.

It was clear that the management team was more than capable of making this point in vain, but at least from a world view, wasn’t this an event that all countries put in their best effort to create?

Leeha’s thought that it couldn’t end like that.

‘First of all, we need to recognize what the problem is. Since the original 60-day navigation schedule has been extended indefinitely, the biggest problem in the current situation is… Food for NPCs.’

Users could endure, consuming only enough food to maintain their stamina.

When stamina ran out, hP and MP could not be recovered, and if hunger got worse, it would consume their HP and MP.

However, no matter how much they saved, the food they initially packed was only enough for 100 days.

What if the voyage period increased to more than twice the initial estimate? Not only are there problems for users, but also NPCs who live only on Middle Earth may even die!

‘Fishing and other things, even with users operating at full capacity, but it is questionable how many more days could be added with the food situation, and in any case, the maximum should be around 110 days in the current situation.’

It was natural that there were suggestions to go back.

To date, the voyage had taken approximately 29 days.

This meant that it would take 29 days to return, replenish food, then set off again and take another 29 days to return to their current location.

‘But it’s too late. Too too late.’

Food replenishment cannot be completed in just one day.

If they included that extra time, it would take at least 65 more days to get back to their current location.

The duration of the expedition to the new continent, of which they did not know how long, was indefinitely extended.

In other words, it meant that the time that was originally set for reaching the new continent would have passed. That was enough to make Bluebeard complete all preparations for the Middle Earth system.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘The next question is whether the time needed to focus on Middle Earth will increase…’

The current logout rotation was efficient and reasonable.

But isn’t that only based on a 60-day voyage?

Assuming that it took about 12 days in reality, all participating users could recognize their schedules and focus on Middle Earth.

What if 100 days or 120 days passed, and they didn’t even know the end? What if it was extended by more than 20 or 30 days in reality?

‘Concentration is bound to loosen. There will be users who will not be able to connect due to not only concentration but also other real-life schedules. If there is a hole in the rotation of one or two people like that, the fatigue of users who have to fill it will accumulate, and as a result, the entire user is shaken.’

Even if there was only one hole in a large dam, the crack would quickly spread to the entire dam.

‘It would be better if the end was at least confirmed…. It takes 150 days to reach the new continent! If I did that, I would at least make a new plan.’

What humans struggled with the most was anxiety. And as always, Middle Earth had increased the difficulty of the game by appropriately taking advantage of users’ fears and anxieties.

“Ahhhhh shit! What happened again suddenly-”

“What are you worrying so much all by yourself?”

“Ah, Nara-ssi.”

Leeha was currently in Blue Marlin. It was where Shin Nara, who participated in the expedition as a general inspector of Fibiel, was.

“Is it because of the schedule?”

“Yes. Fernand-ssi is not the only one in a state of panic… At least one person has to move.”

“You always took the lead in times like this. You might need to let someone else do it.”

Shin Nara smirked and scolded Leeha.

It was a tone that was asking why Leeha had to carry the burden. However, her expression was anything but that.

Leeha looked at Shin Nara’s face and smiled.

“You know very well that I am not that kind of person.”


“Heh, that’s right. So Leeha-ssi … Leeha, cough, cough.”

She had an innocent smile. Shin Nara, who almost burst out laughing, managed to swallow her words.

“Me? What?”

“No, no. It’s nothing. It’s all good, but you’re a coach.”

“Huh?”

“S-so! Have you thought about what you’re going to do?”

Shin Nara muttered softly and then quickly changed his mind.

Leeha continued to tilt his head, but his expression became serious again at Shin Nara’s question.

He recognized what the problem was. But what should be the solution?

‘Not now.’

It was something he could definitely say.

The conclusion was that there was no way to overcome this difficulty in the current situation. Therefore, he was able to focus on just one thing.

“We have to keep going.”

“Keep going?”

“Yes. One step at a time. Slowly. In other words, we are walking on parallel beams without being able to see what is ahead. How much longer will the parallel beam continue, and if we do something wrong, we might fall on the parallel beam…. Still, it can’t be helped. The best thing to do in this situation is to move forward slowly.”

Leeha’s voice was resolute.

Shin Nara had round rabbit eyes and slowly nodded.

“That’s right. You know very well.”

“Huh? I know it well?”

“Leeha-ssi watches fencing games, right?”


“O-of course! I also memorized the rules.”

“You memorized it?”

“N-no, I know the rules!”

Leeha, whose relationship with Shin Nara had progressed, almost told her what he had memorized. Shin Nara seemed to have already figured out what Leeha was trying to hide and laughed lightly.

“There is probably no sport played in a narrower arena than fencing. It is a game where I have to point my sword toward my opponent in a limited area… the other person’s skills always seem to magnify and I always feel anxious. It was the same even if I won a medal.”

“Is that so? It doesn’t seem that way.”

“Have you watched my game?”

“T-that- well……”

Leeha wondered if it would have been better if he said, “I memorized the rules so I could watch those games on the internet.”? However, Leeha, who felt somewhat embarrassed, just glossed over it and stopped talking.

Shin Nara, who was staring at the scene silently, opened her mouth again.

“Huhut, anyway, when I am anxious, the coaches say something. We just have to remember one thing. Do you know what it is?”

“Hmm…… swing it?”

“Ah! It’s almost the same. Ding!”

“If it is almost the same, wouldn’t it be ding ding ding?”

“If a sniper doesn’t hit the target, wouldn’t it be a shame? Just because it hits a nearby object, it doesn’t mean it hit, right?”

“Ugh…… truth bomb……”

As Leeha held his chest and acted, Shin Nara burst into laughter.

When the excited atmosphere calmed down somewhat, shi Nara opened her mouth again.

“This is how we learn, ‘If you rush when you’re nervous, you’re a pushover, if you stop, you’re a fool, and if you turn back, you’re a coward’.”

“Running……?”


“Yes. If you rush at someone just because you’re nervous, you are a pushover. There is no time when it is easier to set the match than at that time.”

“Is stopping in a similar vein?”

“Yes. If you stop, you are bound to show a lot of gaps. Then what about going back? It’s not worth talking about.”

“Hmm, I know what you mean.”

As Leeha listened to Shin Nara, he was able to understand what she was trying to say.

She wanted to encourage and give strength to Leeha.

“So one step at a time, one step at a time. We have no choice but to take it slowly. Because that relaxedness is a disguise as leisure, it actually weighs down the other person and makes them rush to the other person. Leeha-ssi is not a pushover, a fool, or a coward, is he!”

Rather than saying something, it’s about comparing it to a situation you’ve experienced.

Because her speaking skills were not very good, her intention was clearly revealed, but only her sincerity and warmth were well felt by Leeha.

“As expected of Nara-ssi.”

“What?”

“You sound like an Olympic medalist.”

“W-what do you mean? Is it an insult? I did my best to tell it to cheer you up!”

“Haha, it helped! I am just saying thank you.”

They had a relationship where they could exchange jokes without hesitation.

Through his conversation with Shin Nara, Leeha once again became confident in his choice and gained the power to persuade users.

The issue of navigation to the new continent, on which there were differing opinions, was ultimately moved under the temporary conclusion of maintaining the status quo.

Now that people’s trust in Fernand had collapsed, Leeha’s active persuasion had moved people’s minds, but it was Alexander’s words that quelled other users’ anxiety.

『There.』

Rank 1, there were many meanings contained in that title.

And since Lee Jiwon and other rankers also did not complain, the anxiety turned into confidence again.

The morning after the mood reversal was exactly the 30th day of departure from Kraven Coast, and the first ‘thing’ they found in the bright morning sunlight was the treasure of the New Serpent.

“Oh, what is that? Bird?”

“A bird?”

“T-there! Isn’t that a bird? Something moving in the sky!”

Kidd looked at the place where Bobae’s finger was pointing and shaded his eyes with his hands.

A black dot in the sky moved slowly but surely.

“Oh! This is amazing! Is that real?!”

“If there’s a bird, doesn’t it mean there is a land nearby- no, it’s not the new continent, of course, but there’s at least an island? Things like seagulls only fly near land!”

“If we stop by an island, we can resupply food, right?”

“Yes, yes! We’ll be able to review the mana relay tower again! Wouldn’t it be safer if there was another relay point, not just in the middle of the Sea of Dawn?”

Alexander’s confident attitude was not the only factor that influenced the expedition’s decision to continue the voyage.

In addition to Leeha’s logical and reasonable persuasion, there was no doubt that the hypothesis that Hyein, the top spatial mage, also reassured the minds of the users.

‘Even if it is not in the middle of the Sea of Dawn if we find another island to build another mana relay tower, you will have another chance to save our lives.’

If anything happens, everyone could just teleport there.

If it got to the point where they had to abandon the ship and run away, it meant that the quest was on the verge of failure anyway.

Although it was impossible to avoid the enormous quest failure penalty, the power of Hyein’s hypothesis was that there was at least a possibility of avoiding the death penalty.

“Kiskis, it looks like it’s flying this way… it’s very slow.”

As Kijung and Bobae made a fuss, Biyemi and Jin Gonggong, who were nearby, also joined them.

“Slow?”

“Shouldn’t we already be able to roughly see its shape? Be it a seagull or something else. Kiskis, but I still can’t see its shape properly-”

Biyemi’s expression, which had been talking with a smile, gradually began to harden.

Jin Gonggong’s face hardened again. The giant druid’s expression was stiff.

“What’s wrong?”

“Ha-Ha Leea-nim! Call Ha Leeha-nim! Quick-”

Biyemi made an uproar.

Bobae and Kijung were still just nodding and laughing.

It’s speed was slow? The bird? It wasn’t possible! But what did it mean when it appeared to be moving slowly?

‘It means- that the object coming down from the sky was huge!’

In other words, the thing that was flying towards them was huge.

However, even at the distance, it was about the size of a thumbnail.

It’s not that it was small enough that it could be covered with the thumb. To put it in another way….

‘It is so up high that we feel like its speed is slow- and that it looks like the size of a thumbnail?!’

If so, how big would it be when it was above the ship? Biyemi and Jin Gonggong instinctively realized that.

“E-Emergeeeeeency! Emeeeergeeeeeency-! A huge monster appeared above! It’s rapidly descending towards the ship! Everyone, get ready! 『Polymorph: Bear』.”

Shwiiik, the already big giant turned into a bear and became even bigger. There was one reason why Jin Gonggong chose to transform into a bear.

Kuwoooooooooooh——!

In other words, it was no different than an emergency bell. The users of the New Serpent and the Blue Marlin immediately rushed out onto the deck.

“Uhihihihit! Interesting! Is every day a surprise in this damned sea? It’s so fun!”

“It is not the time to say such things, Petyr-nim! My hawk is so scared that it refuses to fly!”

As Petyr on the deck of the Blue Marlin laughed, the ‘Hunter’ next to him grumbled.

He joined the Minis tournament and was able to be a part of the expedition, with his hawk and Jin Gonggong’s polymorph, they have performed well as scouts so far.

His hawk, who was so courageous, was now sat on his forearm and trembling.

While other users were predicting the size and speed of the monster, there were some users who were not particularly nervous when discussing defense.

One of them was Chiyou, who was aboard the Blue Marlin with Petyr.

“Heuung, indeed…… there is such a monster. It would be easier for us if we could tame just a few of those things. What do you think, Yongyong?”

She walked softly, swaying her waist, and hugged the ‘Tamer’ user’s arm.

“T-that, uh- I-I know what you mean, c-Chiyou-nim, but in order to tame a monster, intimacy is needed first……. I-I wonder if I could tame that guy-”

Aihng, don’t give me such a lukewarm answer. You can tame it, right? I wish you could tame just one and give it to me as a gift. I will treat you well when you come to our store later.”

Her cuteness was like a ripe peach.

Not only did the sweet scent spread just by being near her, but also her combat attire, which was filled with movement like a flower in Middle Earth.

(To be continued…)
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 When Chiyou spoke while pulling the tamer Yongyong’s arm a little more tightly to her chest, there were only a handful of men in Middle Earth who could reject her.

“C-cough, kuheum, I’ll do my best.”

“Yes, yes, we will look at what kind of monster it is, so you must succeed, okay?”

Chiyou closed one of her eyes and loosened her arms.

Shin Nara, who had been entrusted by Leeha, watched at every opportunity, but there was nothing particularly strange about her so far.

It was unavoidable. She was also a user who had been given this quest. There was absolutely no need to interfere with the progress of the quest.

Rather, it would be Chiyou who wanted more earnestly than anyone else for the new continent expedition to arrive safely at the new continent.

‘This is in order to acquire live information on the front line. If a pioneering base is built, another foothold could be established there…’ It was a shame that she was separated from Leeha and Bobae, but this was still satisfying.

‘Because I can know everything about his concerns about situational judgment in addition to sniping.’

Chiyou slowly cast her skill. Other users were also concentrating on her movements.

They also knew that the Oracle Rubini would be using a similar skill.

Something Leeha was curious about before. It was Chiyou who performed the task of predicting the monster’s movements and showed its form on the Blue Marlin.

『Dance of Vibration』

Chiyou used her skill. It was an information search skill that sensed surrounding vibrations and created a 3D map of the vibrations.

However, what attracted men’s attention more than her skill was, sharararang-! Chiyou’s movements that matched the sound of musical instruments that came from somewhere.

There were many users watching with their mouths wide open as Chiyou walked and danced lightly.

“Where are you looking at?! Stay focused! Captain- aaahh…..!? Oh my gosh! This, this is the size of that monster?”

It woke up the users.

And all eyes on the Blue Marlin focused on Chiyou’s map.

Although Rubini’s skill and display method were different, it was still recognizable. The small object created with a block-like texture was the Blue Marlin.


Far above the toy-like Blue Marlin, the ‘giant monster’ coming down from the sky was so huge that it was hard to believe.

“What……? An airplane- no, is it more like a spaceship?”

“Are you sure you’re going to capture that? I don’t think so. It’s too big.”

“Well, it’s coming down!”

“Everyone get away, you idiots. I will catch it.”

Luger began to climb up the mast carrying the 『Cobalt Blue Python』.

His instinct was to be faster than other users.

However, this time was different. It was because there was already a user who received a ‘favor’ from Chiyou.

“I’ll take care of it! I will tame it and make it helpful for this expedition, so be careful when attacking! Let’s go, winged pony!”

“This crazy bastard-”

The tamer, who barely sat on top of the little pony with wings, began to soar into the sky.

‘Hehe, difficulties don’t always exist from ‘enemies’. When your allies are as much in the way as your enemies… what are you going to do, Ha Leeha?’

And Chiyou had a very small smile as she looked at that.

“What?! Who-who is that?”

Leeha, who made the same move as Luger, was equally flustered.

He quickly climbed up to the mast and lifted his Black Bass, but there was an unknown user in the sky.

“Eong-ah! It’s Yongyong, the Blue Marlin’s tamer! I heard him say that he was going to tame that thing!”

“Kiskis, that’s ridiculous. Winged ponies can carry a person and fly, but they are slow. It won’t be enough to increase intimacy while avoiding that monster’s attacks.”

“T-that’s right! It’s literally a transportation device used instead of a carriage… This is my first time seeing someone fly on that thing… He will be eaten.”

Hearing Kijung’s shout, Biyemi and Jin Gonggong made skeptical expressions.


The personnel of the New Serpent had already confirmed the monster in question through Rubini’s skill and Fernand’s knowledge, and were preparing to deal with the ‘Giant Albatross’.

“Fernand-ssi!” “How did you catch it last time?”

“We just ran away! How could we catch that? But because of its speed… We managed to get there by sacrificing two of the fleet’s ships…”

Because, no matter how fast they were, they could never be faster than an aircraft. Moreover, what about the size of the one that caught Leeha’s eyes?

‘The Golden Eagle at Candle Castle back in the day was roughly the size of a light aircraft. But what about that..”

Leeha measured the size of the monster flying towards the New Serpent and Blue Marlin.

The width of the monster that spread its wings was about 40m. The length from the tip of its beak to its tail feathers was approximately 50m.

Even the falling speed was so great that convection currents similar to flying clouds were mixed behind it.

‘I’m sure it’s bigger than the plane I take to Jeju Island.’

It is, so to speak, a flying monster on the level of a mid-to-large passenger plane.

Leeha swallowed dryly.

The distance between it and the sea was approximately 4km, but considering the speed of its descent, there was not much time left.

‘If we get hit directly even once- no, even if it’s not at the level of a direct hit. If it flies just above the two ships, the aftershock might cause the ship to capsize.

With that size and speed, waves near the sea surface cannot be ignored.

“Damn it, so I have to shoot it quickly somehow-”

It wasn’t within reach yet. Moreover, what should be done to the tamer user who was approaching it?

‘What do you plan to do, Alexander-ssi?’

Alexander rode on top of Bailephus who had already turned into a dragon.

Was he thinking of charging toward the flying creature the size of an ancient gold dragon or larger?

Alexander: Can you make it crash?


It was then that a whisper came from Alexander.

Leeha: It is still out of range. It will reach the range within a minute-

Alexander: No, the tamer.

Leeha: Yongyong-nim? Should I shoot Yongyong?

Alexander: I don’t need anyone who doesn’t follow my instructions.

Leeha: W-wait a minute. There’s no need to be extre-

Alexander: I think Yongyong will die from Baileiphus’ attack, so I am asking you for a favor.

Alexander’s voice was not fast, but it had quite a bit of force in it.

It also showed Leeha that Yongyong’s sudden behavior had angered Alexander.

Leeha: Ah, you want him to crash without dying?

Alexander: That’s right.

Leeha: Haaaa… I might look weak to Alexander-ssi, but it’s not at all like that.

Although it was just a ‘normal’ attack, it could cause 30,000 damage with a single shot, did it look weak to the rank 1?

Leeha was a bit disappointed that Alexander underestimated him consciously or unconsciously, but it was a luxury to feel that way right now.

Leeha: Yongyong-nim? Where are you going? Come back quickly!

Yongyong: I, I think I can take that monster!

Leeha: What kind of nonsense are you talking about? What are you doing with such a slow, winged pony? You know better that it won’t work! Why are you suddenly acting like that?

Yongyong: T-that-

Yongyong hesitated and couldn’t continue his words.

Because it was a request from Chiyou. Because he wanted to look good to her. He wasn’t a user big enough to answer like that.

Leeha: Ah! W-well, if we tame that thing! We can all ride on that! If it’s that big, right

-Eh?

Riding a giant albatross? Leeha looked at the huge bird monster through the scope of the Black Bass again.

‘It is definitely as big as a mid-to-large passenger aircraft. There are at least 100 on the plane to Jeju Island. If we can tame it, we can travel to the new continent faster… no!’

Leeha: The problem is that only users can ride it! What about the mana relay tower materials? We can’t do it without a ship!

Leeha felt ashamed of himself for a moment.

Even though he understood exactly what the quest was about, he almost fell for such a ridiculous temptation!

There was a quest in which users who participated in the suppression of Faust and other agents of the Demon King received three stat points as a reward.

The content was to participate in the new continent expedition and reach the new continent.

If they could tame and ride the giant albatross, they may be able to complete that quest, but that was not the only quest they received as a member of the true new continent expedition.

The construction of the mana relay tower was also very important!

Even if they somehow manage to use the giant albatross to fly, they will not be able to succeed in the quest.

Yongyong: B-but- I’m sorry! Anyway, I will definitely try to tame it!

Leeha: No, that won’t work- Ignoring Leeha’s whisper, Yongyong sped up even more.

Leeha sighed and looked at the mast of the Blue Marlin. He was sure that he was not the only one who was feeling frustrated right now.

Moreover, Yongyong had not reached even 1km above ground.

There was no way he could have been more patient than Leeha, as he was capable of reaching this range.

Leeha: Stop, lugeeeeer-!

Baaaaaaang!

Leeha quickly lowered his gun and fired at the Blue Marlin’s mast.

To be exact, the bullet flew above Luger’s head, on top of the mast!

Luger: T-this damned bastard? Do you want to die?

Leeha: Didn’t you just try to shoot Yongyong?

Luger: I already told Alexander, so it’s decided.

Leeha:No, no! Damn it, I hate to see him go on a rampage, but I still need him!

That was what Leeha was worried about. Tamers were similar to druids in that they must manage the intimacy of monsters or creatures, but they are similar to summoners in that they use the target as a ‘pet’.

It meant that it had the characteristics of both jobs.

What if they don’t know what will happen in the future at the new continent’s pioneer base, and were concerned about the possibility that Kijung Gonggong, the druid representative, or the representative summoner, died?

It meant that the tamer was an essential backup resource.

Luger: Then what are you going to do? Are you going to let our whole ship capsize to save that idiot? If we don’t deal with the huge bird now, it will be difficult to determine where it will fall in advance. You know, right?

Leeha: Damn it! I know, so just wait!

The issue of handling the giant albatross was not simply whether or not it could be killed.

Another problem was that even if they killed something of that size and fell at an incredible speed, its body would not disappear immediately.

‘To put it bluntly, if its body fell into the sea and was swept away by the waves, there is a high possibility that the ship will capsize. The worst case scenario is that the ship gets hit by the corpse and breaks into pieces.’

Therefore, it must be dealt with in advance. After killing it so that it could no longer move or change direction, they must inform the NPC captains to sail as far as possible from the expected dropping point.

‘I could just shoot the giant albatross, but the dragon is blocking the sniping path…’

This was the reason Luger wanted to kill Yongyong, it was also the reason why Leeha could not shoot the giant albatross right away.

Luger wanted to sacrifice a ‘cow’ for the greater good, and Leeha wanted to save even that ‘cow’ somehow.

‘Huhut, look at this, I knew it. This makes it clear… That is Ha Leeha’s weakness. If he is that greedy, there will come a time when he won’t be able to protect even what he should protect, himself. Huhut.’

Chiyou smiled brightly at the Blue Marlin and watched the stalemate. Chiyou thought that Leeha’s weakness was that he thought too much. If you try to kill two birds with one stone, you will miss both.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Besides, doesn’t he think a lot about ways not to hurt people? He didn’t receive any help from anyone during his fight with the Rising Sun, nor did he receive any help from anyone during the guild war between Hwahong and Byulcho, or even in the national war. Because of his tendency not to cause any inconvenience to those around him, he always tries to take risks alone. That would strangle him… No, it is going to strangle him… huhut.’

She thought like this, but her expression was full of worry.

She knew how to act by completely separating her expression and thoughts, and she also had the acting skills of Shinobigumi’s leader. But she overlooked one fact.

The reason why Leeha always aimed for two birds with one stone.

Why Leeha thought a lot.

*****

“Pheeew……. There’s nothing I could do about it. I’m sorry Yongyong-ssi.”

Leeha adjusted the clicks and aimed at Yongyong flying toward the sky. No, strictly speaking, what his scope aimed for was not Yongyong.

To stop Yongyong without shooting him.

Baaaaang—–

“Ki-hihiihihim!”

“Oh-Oooooooog!”

Leeha’s bullet aimed for one of the winged pony’s wings.

The pony lost its balance, fluttered in the air, and fell in an instant.

“Kikis. Right. There is no need to shoot the person to stop him. Nice, halihali-nim!”

“I think that Yongyong needs some disciplining.”

“I agree with that.”

Kidd and Kijung looked at Yongyong, who was slowly falling from the shy, with feverish expressions. Thanks to the magic of Hyein and Baileiphus, Yongyong was able to land on Blue Marlin unscathed. However, he would not be able to avoid voices of criticism.

“Kill, oppa.”

“Hyungnim! Is the firing angle not okay? Aren’t you aiming for achievement?”


“… Time is running low. Considering the speed of the fall after the kill and the scope of the tidal wave’s aftermath after the fall- we need to kill it within 1 minute and 25 seconds.”

Although Yongyong’s incident ended, the danger of the giant albatross was not yet over.

Users of the New Serpent became more and more impatient as they looked at the 3D map created by Rubini.

It wasn’t simply because of the size comparison between the monster and the ship.

The simulation, which included the speed of the ship, even depicted the aftermath of exceeding the time limit.

“C-crazy- is this the simulation when it crashes?”

“Yes. The time limit is 1 minute and 20 seconds. If we are late, even Captain Drake will not be able to escape the tidal wave’s range.”

“What are you doing, Ha Leeha?”

Even Drake was so nervous that he bit his lip after checking the simulation. Everyone’s eyes were focused on one place. It was because the only person who could successfully attack the monster from 3km away was Leeha.

‘I can just shoot. But…’

Leeha remembered the composition of the New Serpent and Blue Marlin.

If he were to simply catch it, he would have hit it right now.

‘Should I just end it by shooting it?’

A bird the size of a mid-to-large passenger plane. Quickly kill it and escape the waves from the fall?

It was a very unfortunate choice for Leeha. Beyond simple item looting, another plan was rapidly taking form.

Leeha: Nara-ssi!

Nara: Yes! What is it, Leeha-ssi?!

Leeha: From now on, please listen carefully to what I say and spread the word quickly!

Nara: What? What are you-

Leeha: Quickly! There is no time. The timing has to match the users on that ship!


Nara: Ah, okay.

Leeha hurriedly whispered to Shin Nara and called out another user.

“Hyein-ssi! Eunchuon-ssi! Lee Jiwon-ssi! Ram Hwajung-ssi! You can work with Baileiphus, right?”

“Yes? What?”

“Me?”

“Ugh, I don’t want to do anything with Alexander.”

“If oppa tells me to do it.”

Leeha looked at the scope once again, checked the speed of the giant albatross, and looked at the users.

‘Will this really work? No, if we could do it- we could have a lot of freedom. Damn it, if there’s no risk, there will be no reward.’

Would Leeha change his mind if he saw the result of the simulation Rubini created? It was unknown.

However, at this point, all users on both ships have noticed that Ha Leeha had a certain plan and greed.

‘Huhut, what are you going to do again? The way you stopped Yongyong was so simple that it wasn’t fun, but if you get greedy this time, the damage won’t be small…’

Chiyou could now see the size of the giant albatross.

The sound of a huge bird rushing and cutting through the wind was also audible.

“Uh, eong-ah?! It’s too late!”

“Ha-Ha Leeah-nim! Quick! Quick!”

Leeha belatedly regretted that he didn’t imagine that the ‘flying monster’ that Fernand talked about was like a harpy or griffin.

“No… It’s already too late. We just passed the time limit.”

But it was too late for regret.

Rubini still wore her oracle’s mask, but one could well imagine what kind of expression she had behind it.


“It’s not too late! Prepare for impact!”

I’m going to let it descend a little more!”

『Ha Lehaaaaaaa-! What is Dame Shin Nara saying now?! Are you crazy?』

“Just follow my request, burke-ajussi! The movement of the Blue Marlin is more important than that of the New Serpent!”

Burke, the captain of the Blue Marlin, who heard the instructions from Shin Nara, grumbled at Leeha, even using loudspeaker magic.

The situation was imminent, and now the altitude of the giant albatross was around 2.3km.

“Huuuuu, huuuu.”

Leeha lifted up his Black Bass.

Now there were no obstructions blocking his view. The image of the descending aircraft-level bird could also be seen in his scope.

‘I didn’t want to reveal it like this but… It couldn’t be helped. For all of us!’

Leeha took a deep breath.

The sea breeze blew quite strongly, but that meant nothing to Leeha anymore.

‘Ignore the wind direction and speed. The trajectory is straight. The flight speed of the target is approximately 250km/h. It’s accelerating.’

Haaaa…..

“Joint Fixation: Lower Body. Snipe. The distance is 2.1, 2, 1.9km-”

Kiiiiiing—–

‘It’s a shame I was only able to test it once.’

Leeha predicted the path of the descending albatross.

He might not be able to kill it in one hit. Even if he killed it, his subsequent plans might fail.

‘There’s no need to think like this. After saying that to Ram Hwayeon, I am being swayed.’

Leeha relaxed as he thought of the red-haired woman screaming.

“Leeha-ssi! Shoot quickly! Or rather, I-”

It wasn’t until the situation became urgent enough for Bobae to raise her bow that Leeha slowly uttered a word.

Chiyou couldn’t help but bite her lip until it bled while watching that scene. Why did Leeha have so many thoughts? Why did Leeha aim for two birds with one shot? Of course, there was only one reason. 『Multi-Warhead Shot』

It was because he had the ability to kill two birds with one shot.

Baaang— Bababababaaaaaaang—–

One bullet split into 27 as soon as it left the muzzle.

Due to the skill penalty of Multi-Warhead Shot, its individual attack power decreased by 30%, but the giant albatross would not be able to avoid any of the 27 bullets.

“Uh, baileiphus!”

『That- what is that skill…?』 Has another seal on Black Bass been released!?』

Alexander grabbed the floundering ancient gold dragon by the neck.

This meant that Baileiphus was so surprised that he moved urgently forgetting that Alexander was sitting on top of him. He had no choice but to be surprised.

Even for an ancient gold dragon, survival could not be guaranteed when all the bullets hit it directly from Leeha’s 『Multi-Warhead Shot』.

When all buffs and penalties were applied to a target who has more than 20 levels above Leeha, the attack power of one multi-warhead bullet was approximately 24,000.

The total power of 27 shots was 648,000.

“Kiskis, if a 『Legendary-ranked』 item starts running rampant, the balance will collapse… I guess Petyr won’t be able to save his extra lives.”

“Leeha hyung… When did you get that kind of skill?”

The only response the users could give was exclamation.

Even the tank Kijung had no confidence to withstand Leeha’s attack of this level even if he used all his defensive skills and shields.

“It’s a skill that shoots 『Wild Bunch』 in one direction… This is too much of a cheat.”

“T-that- attacks like that are ineffective anyway! Is there an idiot in the world who would take that kind of attack head-on? If the target is small, it will be especially difficult to attack!”

As expected, only the three musketeers were the ones who instantly figured out what the following skills were for, what their effects were, and even what their weaknesses were.

Kidd accurately pointed out the pros of Leeha’s 『Multi-Warhead Shot』 in a positive direction and Luger its cons. And another person, Chiyou, was the same.

‘It’s a new skill… I wouldn’t have hesitated just to get attention. There will be penalties such as reduced range and bullet speed. The damage will be less than that of a regular shot… still, can you catch it?’

Although she did not use rifles, she was still able to guess the ‘likely’ characteristics of Leeha’s skill.

Chiyou looked at the point where the bullets and the giant albatross would meet with an interested expression.

There was no longer any interest in the tamer Yongyong, who had crashed and was criticized by the users of the Blue Marlin. Leeha held his breath. They should not miss the next step. Depending on how many shots were off, he could tell how much damage it would inflict on that huge body!

‘… 3, 2, 1-‘

——Piiiiiiiiiiiiii——!

The faint sound of a bird crying could be heard in the air.

At the same time, white light emanated from Leeha’s body in the crow’s nest. Precision bombing with 27 warheads!

It was a giant monster that other users couldn’t even think of fighting, let alone catching, but Leeha’s tyrannical Black Bass easily succeeded in swallowing it.

“Uwaaaaaaa-!”

“D-did you catch it?”

That?”

“One shot? No, that- Ha Leeha-nim, how much damage did you inflict to kill it?”

“Besides, what level is it that you leveled up when you caught it? Is the monster’s level high? No, whatever it is, it doesn’t make sense! Does that have that kind of power? Will a high-level die in one hit?”

Users instantly became in a festive mood. However, the excitement and fanfare could not last longer than 2 seconds. Because the giant albatross was falling from the sky.

‘Oh my, he really caught it….! The more I look at it, the more I want him under me!’

Chiyou’s eyes shone.

Like a person who discovered a sparkling jewel beyond a display case, surprise, earnestness, and a mixture of greed, flashed from her eyes.

‘But the line had already been crossed, what should be done? As far as the dragon lifting the ship. Oh my, there will be no way to avoid the enormous tidal wave that will occur.’

Rather, the body of the giant albatross, which was unable to control its own flight upon death, accelerated as it fell.

While everyone including Chiyou, was confused with a mix of admiration, astonishment, and worry, Leeha’s voice loudly spread on the sea.

“Blue Marlin and New Serpent!”

Full speed ahead to the crash site of the giant albatross! I won’t take any questions! I say it again! To the crash site! “Full speed ahead to the crash site of the giant albatross!”

It was a statement that made the listeners pick their ears.

(To be continued…)
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 “What-”

“Huh? Leeha—-!”

“What do you mean-!”

“Kuhahahaha!” “This crazy bastard!”

“I don’t know how lucky we are that you’re not part of Fibiel’s navy!”

“… New Serpent, hard port! After a quick turn to port, head to the expected crash site!”

It was an order that users could not even be shocked by, but the good news was that Leeha had a high level of intimacy with the NPC captains who operated the ships.

Without any complaint to Leeha, the bows immediately began to turn. It was only when the ship suddenly tilted and the speed of the ship increased that the users felt it.

The gigantic ‘meteor’ began to head toward the crashing point.

“Oh, oooh, w-wait! Are we really going? If this continues and we all die…”

“Stop! Stop! Hey-! Leeha!”

“That idiot ended up doing something again.”

“Uhi,uhahahahaha! Surprise?! It was such a surprise that I couldn’t even laugh! Ukyahahahak!”

The users of New Serpent were fortunate to be able to see the confident expression and stand of Leea.

However, what about those on the Blue Marlin who couldn’t see Leeha’s face?

They were literally tumbling into a crucible of chaos.

Anxiety and impatience dominated the deck, but with the addition of Petyr’s hysterical laughter, it was nothing short of a mess.

‘… What are you going to to?’

It was the same for Chiyou.

The ships moved toward the expected crash site, and what if the giant albatross really fell on top of the ships? They would surely die.


Moreover, the Blue Marlin was now ahead of the New Serpent, and if that continued, the Blue Marlin would be hit directly.

“If I want it to stop, I will be able to stop it… But I would have to use my secret skill.”

Chiyou secretly touched the crystal ball, but could not do anything.

‘I don’t know the reason yet. Why is he doing this? On purpose? Is he trying to test me? Is he saying that he realized that I was trying to ruin the quest by encouraging Yongyong? No way. Yongyong did not say anything. There’s no way that idiot would tell Leeha because of his personality. But…’

There was another reason why Chiyou could not use the crystal ball.

Even at this moment, someone was watching Chiyou and not the disappearing albatross. Chiyou knew that Shin Nara, who was standing next to the mast, was looking at her sharply.

‘That bitch is looking at me like she is watching me from the start. She must have heard something from Ha Leeha. Tsk.’

There was no way Chiyou did not know the relationship between Shin Nara and Leeha.

Although she didn’t know that they had met in reality, she was able to fully understand the extent of their relationship within Middle Earth.

It was nearly impossible to use skills that put a strain on the Blue Marlin while avoiding the eyes of Shin Nara, who played the role of Inspector for Fibiel’s New Continent Expedition.

She intended to encourage an atmosphere of uncertainty and weed out people who drive too hard or have impure thoughts.

‘Now, not only me but also Petyr will be on the dragon’s ship. Good. If it were a game like this, I would participate. If I have patience, I won’t lose anywhere’,

Chiyou barely managed to control her mind. Of course, like other users, she acted as if she was very scared.

When Chiyou was fighting alone, drumming and playing janggu, Leeha, who is her opponent on the fight, had no idea.

It was because the only thing that filled his mind was how to overcome the current situation.

“Bailephus-nim! Hyein-ssi, Lee Jiwon-ssi, eunchon-ssi, rodin-ssi! Reverse Gravity and Flight Magic Casting! The target is the ‘Corpse of the Giant Albatross’! Cast when I tell you to cast!”

Leeha really tried to ‘catch’ the falling albatross.

Chwaaaaaaah—- chwaaaaa

The two ships tore through the waves and reached the vicinity of the expected crash point.

As soon as it settled down to a point where it could almost be said to be falling from above them, people’s necks began to bend even more.


Naturally, their anxiety grew.

“Reverse gravity magic? But that is impossible. That size and that speed! Do you know how much of a shock it will be? There is no way you can stop that just by stacking five skills…”

“So noisy, Kidd! Anyone who can’t help this time should be quiet and just watch!”

Leeha yelled at Kidd.

His skepticism was no help at all.

Even the ancient gold dragon, baileiphus, could only lift the Blue Marlin and New Serpent 10 meters above the water.

The gold dragon himself said that it was difficult to keep it going for a long time. It meant that handling the two ships with this huge mass was difficult even with dragon magic.

Then what about now?

A mass greater than that of two ships combined was falling with speed.

Leeha said that they would make it happen with the help of 4 skilled mages and a dragon, so it was only a natural reaction.

“Next is Daoist Mu, daoist Baeju, and Raphaela-nim! Please give strength and stamina magic to the people I designate! If you have a buff to increase jumping power, use that too!”

“Eh? W-who has that kind of magic?!”

Raphaela, the ‘saint’ wearing a tall hat, was taken aback when Leeha called her name.

In the meantime, she prepared to follow Leeha’s instructions, asking not ‘what should I use?’ but ‘who should I use it to?’ and that was what a 『Hero’s Descendant』 was!

Leeha called out other names in succession.

“Daoist Mu and Daoist Baeju, please buff Bantal and the Amusan brothers, and Raphaela-nim, please buff Master Kay!

” Ohhh? Eong-ah?! Who? Me? The barbarians?”

“What about Bantal-nim? He’s a descendant of the ‘Barbarian’ hero of the Second Human-Demon War, right?”

Of course, the people around him were as surprised as Kijung was at being called out.

The buff of Daoist Baeju, daoist Mu, and Raphaela would be one of the strongest buffs in Middle Earth.


But betting on melee users?

“Good! Very good. And you can’t just call them Amusan brothers! They are ‘Bantal and the Amunsan Trio’! Are you ready, brothers!?”

“What Shin Nara-ssi said earlier was true. By the way, don’t you think you should ask Superman to do this?

“If you’re going to critic, just be quiet! Get ready!”

The four giants, who had heard the plan from Shin Nara in advance, put their weapons down on the ground and relaxed.

“Wait! Eong-ah! What should I do? I’m a tank!”

”

“Kijung!”

“Huh?”

Shoo, shoook, shooot-!

Even at that moment, the buff did not stop getting cast.

Red powder scattered on the Blue Marlin, and Saint Raphaela’s blessings continued to flow endlessly into Kijung on the New Serpent.

Beyond the extremely flashy effects, Leeha’s eyes met Kijung.

“Jump and support that thing.”

For a moment, Kijung wondered if Leeha had made a mistake. Because the corners of Leeha’s mouth appeared to be slightly turned up.

“What?

“What?”

“Leeha-ssi! N-no matter how tanky Kijung is, does it make sense for him to jump and block that thing at that speed? Are you telling him to just jump and lift a plane that’s falling from the sky!?”

“I know! That’s why the reverse gravity magic is being cast! Everyone, get ready! Rubini-nim, how long until impact!?”

“It will take 13 seconds till impact!”

“Okay, power on, power on! Everyone else, brace for impact! “Pyro-nim and Jin-nim cast your fire spell with the widest AoE!”

Leeha’s booming voice spread on the ships without hesitation.

‘Pyro’, the descendant of the fire mage hero, and ‘Jin’, the descendant of the Elementalist hero. They nodded as they are not stupid enough to get dazed at that point.

“We can run with 4 seconds left! Count down! 9, 8, 7- Baaaaaang—–!!!

“Uh… That…. can they jump and stop it?”

“How can they stop that? We will all die!”

“We will die if they fail, we will die!”

The giant albatross’ massive body, falling with a tremendous roar, was now clearly visible to the naked eye.

“6, 5-”

Leeha was just as nervous as the others. It was all based on his guess. There was a possibility for failure!

‘There’s no point in thinking like that now. We can do it.’

Leeha took a deep breath and shouted at the top of his lungs.

“Stop iiiiiiiiit——!!!”

Paaaat-!

With Leeha’s instructions, the four giants in the Blue Marlin, and Kijung in the New Serpent jumped into the air.

With all kinds of buffs and abilities maximized, they soared higher than Petyr or Pei Wu’s leap.

“Leeha hyung! I won’t blame you if I die, but really, next time, please tell me in advance-”

“Mages—-!”

Just before the four people who jumped reached the falling albatross, Leeha shouted.

For users who had already finished casting and were waiting, getting the timing right was easy.

『Levitation』.”

『Reverse Gravity』.”

『Object Floating』.”

『Space Blockade』.”

『Sculpture of the Soaring Hawk』!”

It was at that moment when all the magic of Baileiphus, Hyein, Lee Jiwon, euncheon, and Rodin overlapped with the giant albatross.

Uwaaaaaaaaaaa-!

The users who jumped reached every corner of the falling monster.

Two giants on each wing. And Kijung’s muscles burst out as he raised his arms on the broken head of the giant albatross.

Pooooook…!

The sound was not loud.

However, the fact that the waves shook in the air were visible to the eye along with the dull sound only scared the users.

“The air shook…!”

“Well, if it’s a shockwave of that level-”

The shockwave visible to the naked eye passed over the five users who tried to support the giant albatross and transmitted the energy all the way to the sea surface.

Paaaaaaaak—-

It created a huge splash.

“Wow?!”

“Kyaaaaak-!”

Several users screamed as they saw the tsunami, which was too large to be dismissed as just a splash of water.

Run away?

The New Serpent and Blue Marlin, which had already arrived near the expected crash site, would not be able to avoid the waves with any maneuver.

It was impossible to ride the waves. The waves were already taller than the ship. Moreover, time was too short to control the sail while riding the current.

“E-everyone will die-”

“Don’t worry, we won’t die! Pyro-nim, Jin-nim, Ram Hwajung-ssi-”

Leeha had expected up to this point.

He knew from the beginning that the ships could not withstand such a huge shock.

“-blow it all up!”

“Ahahahahaha! I see. I understand what he means! He said that because I already have that skill!”

Pyro, the descendant of the fire mage hero, laughed.

His reins, which had been ‘sealed’ ever since he boarded the expedition ship, were finally given permission to be lifted!

Just before the huge tsunami hit the two ships, a skill that put all the effort of the three people was cast.

“Heuuuuup!『Flaming River』!”

『Salamander Rush』!”

This was the foundation on which Leeha was able to plan the operation.

It was when the giant moray eel appeared that Pyro, a fire mage, confidently said he would evaporate the sea water within a 15m radius of the ship!

What if the descendant of the Elementalist hero who could use all four elements were added to it?

It was definitely possible.

Of course, Leeha’s expectations were met. They fulfilled their role to the point that it flustered some people.

“Pyro, these guys…”

Something was happening right in front of Luger, to the point of being so flustered that he lost his grip on his 『Cobalt Blue Python』. Leeha could not easily express it as well.

It was because it was hard to express anything with words.

“……Can it be said that the waves are on fire?”

(To be continued…)
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 『Flaming River(猛火過江) 』

It was not a river but enormous waves, but the essence of the skill did not change at all.

『It’s not a river- no, but it is so absurd that it lives up to its name.』

It was a fire that could not be extinguished by any kind of water, and was unique to a ‘Fire Mage’, which had another characteristic aside from simply high temperature, began to surround and engulf the wave.

The members of the new continent expedition watched the scene in fascination as if they were seeing a mirage. However, even if it was Middle Earth’s skill, it could not escape the fundamental laws of nature!

It took about 1.2 seconds for flames to completely envelop the waves.

As the waves disappeared, explosive steam began to erupt.

“Waaaaaaa!? It’s hot!”

“Kuaaaaa-! My HP is decreasing!”

“W-wait- I am going to cast Guardian Saint’s Sword! Get close to me, quick-”

It was a huge amount that looked like it came out of a dumpling steamer, but the temperature was several times hotter than steaming dumplings.

Not only the users aboard the ship but also the five tankers holding the giant albatross in the air were in a hellish state.

“Ram-”

Leeha quickly tried to give instructions to the next person, but she was already aware of what she had to do and jumped up without waiting for instructions.

“Ice Dust!”

Her blue hair fluttering in the air had the same shine as the ice powder spewing from her fingertips.

“Wow…”

“What is that… Is it like a dehumidifier?”

The ice powder sucked up the steam that was spewed out with great force.

The sea level, which had formed a huge cumulus cloud, became calm again when Ram Hwajung’s magic was over.


The waves caused by the shockwave turned into steam, and all of the steam was swept away by the ice powder and fell into the sea.

“G—gooood! This is it. Uhihit! It was a success!”

Leeha was so happy that he jumped up and down to the point where he fell off the main mast.

In fact, it was not possible which skill each user would use. Due to the nature of their jobs, and the skills shown in the tournaments, Leeha assumed that they could do it.

They thought he gave ridiculous instructions, but in the end, Leeha’s calculations turned out to be narrowly accurate.

“Oh my….”

“… Are you the only one who stands out again?”

Even Shin Nara and Kidd.

“You mean you calculated all the characteristics of the expedition members in that short period of time?”

“You probably already knew it from past experience. It is difficult even for a dragon to calculate this connection in such a short period of time.”

It was a sight that surprised even Alexander, the expedition leader, and even the NPC Baileiphus.

『space reversal -〉 buffing the leaping power of the melee tankers -〉 preventing the tsunami from the shockwave -〉 stopping the steam』 and there was only one thing left to do. The safe landing of the melee tankers.

“Now! That bird- get that bastard off the ship!”

Bantal, the three Amusan brothers, and Kijung clung to the giant albatross, which had almost stopped in the sky.

“Right, Kijung! This is exactly why I did this! To use it as food!”

Leeha raised his voice in joy and excitement, but the other users’ reactions were very sour.

“Sometimes, I don’t know if he’s very smart or not.”

“Kiskis, that’s what I said.”

Excluding the 10 people out of the 40 members of the expedition team who were left out due to the log-out rotation, it was a large-scale operation in which virtually all of them were involved, so it was natural for Leeha to omit at least one thing.

“… You idiot, how are you going to take that down?”


That was exactly what Luger muttered.

The fact that the giant albatross was larger than the New Serpent and Blue Marlin.

“Oh?!”

Only then did Leeha realize.

“There is still time left for the reverse gravity- if you don’t take action quickly, it will fall!”

“If it falls from that height, it will cause quite a few waves! What are you trying to do with it?”

Not only Hyein but also Bantal, who was hanging on to the giant albatross, was flustered.

Leeha. whose brain had completely changed to ‘situation over’, suddenly faced a difficult problem.

“Oh- uh…. oh…. T-then what?”

“Phew, Leeha-ssi really. You were doing well and then something like this happens.”

Clang, clang, clang-!

It was Shin Nara who acted in a situation that was ridiculous to those who saw it, those who experienced it, and those who planned the strategy.

“Petyr! Take charge of the left. Do you know what I mean?”

“Puhihihit! Why should I do as ma’am Shin says?”

As Petyr got down on all fours and jumped up, Shin Nara quickly took out her sword.

Shyuuuuk, the light in her eyes that was scarier than the blue-tinged sword light leaking from her sword glared at the strongest assassin of the Miyaw race.

“As the inspector of Fibiel, I order you. Follow my instructions pertaining to the safety of Fibiel’s ship.”

After hearing Shin Nara’s words, Petyr’s eyes bent like half moons. However, everyone could tell that smile was fake.

Petyr, ranked 5th, was the strongest assassin user in Minis and once tried to assassinate Fibiel’s king.

And the only user belonging to the Sacred Knights who protected the King from Petyr, ranked 6th, Shin Nara.


Although they were close to each other, they knew each other’s skills very well.

So much so that Shin Nara asked, ‘Do you know what I mean?’ without saying any other thing.

“Kikikikik, very good! Then it’s a match, a surprise match-! Who will dismantle it~ first!”

Paaaat-!

Petyr immediately leaped to the left wing of the giant albatross. Shin Nara shook her head and ran toward the right wing.

Each of the Miyaw’s four-legged claws boasted better cutting power than a well-forged sword.

What about Shin Nara, who could not be rivaled by anyone in Middle Earth in terms of sword skills alone? Fencing wasn’t just about stabbing.

Each time her sword, which was capable of cutting at a high level, was swung, the giant albatross was torn apart and dismembered.

When Petyr, ranked 5th, and Shin Nara, ranked 6th, swung their weapons for about 2 minutes while stepping on the dead body of the giant albatross that was suspended in the air.

Bang, bang-!

Petyr was able to land safely on the Blue Marlin, and Shin Nara was able to safely land on the New Serpent.

What was placed on the shoulders of the four giands and Kijung who fell after them was a huge amount of fresh meat.

“Acha, chacha! This is my first time carrying such an unreasonable amount of meat. Ah! I heard that albatross meat is not really albatross, did you know that Bobae-ssi?”

“… That’s the first thing you thought after finishing such an incredible operation?”

Kijung and Bobae looked at each other and smiled.

The users and NPCs of the New Serpent and Blue Marlin were next to send cheers to everyone.

Shwaaaaaa——!

Fernand raised his arms with an expression that looked like it was almost going to burst into tears. The amount of food obtained from the giant albatross meat was approximately enough for 15 days.

The voyage, which was only possible for 70, was extended to 85 days. If they survived two or three more attacks like this, it would be possible to secure food for more than 100 days.

“Oh, really. I often used fishing as an emergency food source, but… I’m sure our country’s users will be shocked if they hear this. Catching and eating albatross.”

“Is that a normal seagull, hook? It’s a seagull the size of two ships combined.”

“That’s right.”

Looking at its speed earlier, it looked like it would be difficult to avoid its swooping attack unless it was Captain Drake… It was the 39th day of the voyage, and although 9 days had already passed since Leeha’s activity, the events of that day were still being talked about among users.

In particular, the scene of that day was a shock to Kraven users, who thought that they were more skilled than anyone else in the expedition when it came to sea life.

“If we could have smoked it, wouldn’t it have been possible to make it last longer than 15 days? If we drink the fresh blood, it can be used as a vegetable substitute.”

“Hmm, but wouldn’t it be too difficult to carry those materials and go hunting? Well, even if it were the NPC sailors, there wouldn’t be a sailor who wouldn’t follow Captain Hook if he asked to go…”

“Rather than carrying it for one or two months, don’t you think it would be much more beneficial in terms of weight to simply pack smoking ingredients and move around with only a week’s worth of food?”

“You should also look at the waterline and do the calculation-”

All they had to do was use basic fishing and cooking skills.

However, what if they had Leeha’s method? It was clear that it would be a great help in improving not only new abilities but also their own unique abilities.

This was because Leeha’s performance was nothing short of completely shattering existing common sense.

Of course, the admiration of the users continued, but there was one person in particular who had their eyes shine toward Leeha.

To be exact, it was half human and half fish.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Haaa… Look, I don’t have anything to tell you right now…”

“Still, I believe in you! If you can hunt the giant albatross, one of the worst tyrants on the seas, so easily! I have no doubt that you will definitely help our dragon palace!”

“No, that, mermaid-nim. I told you this a few days ago… I-it’s not like I’m the only one who can do it. You’re still unwell, so just go and rest.”

“I can’t go back down until I can get a positive response from Leeha-nim! I might be the last mermaid who managed to escape from the dragon palace and is still free! Besides, since my job is about to enter the waters of the dragon palace-”

“Ugh, daaaaamn it!”

Leeha covered his ears and distanced himself from the mermaid.

The NPC with the lower body of a fish approached Leeha again, bouncing his body with both arms on the deck floor.

Moreover, his eyes even twinkled…

For Leeha, it was too much of a prick on his conscience to run away, and it was too much of a hassle to stay nearby.

‘Let’s wait for one day, just one day! Since tomorrow is my log-out rotation.’

One more day in Middle Earth time marked the 40th day of navigation.

Leeha would have about two days of freedom from Middle Earth again.

“Kiskis, you can’t stop it anyway. Leeha-ssi is extremely popular with NPCs.”

“He could just treat him coldly or go on top of the crow’s nest, but it is also to Leeha-nim’s advantage that he doesn’t do so.”

“I think it’s a disadvantage… kiskis.”

Biyemi and Jin Gonggong laughed as they watched Leeha walk around the deck with his ears covered and a mermaid chasing after him.

It was never easy for users to catch one word from the mermaid who talked endlessly.

If Fernand had paid attention to what the mermaid said, he would have definitely understood.

But even Fernand did not listen to the mermaid’s words. No, he couldn’t hear it.

“If we continue in this direction, it will be the same route as the first expedition, right?”

“That is if your explanation was accurate.”

“Hmm, we also need to find a nearby island. Isn’t there an island where we can build a mana relay tower?”

“I don’t know everything.”

“Right, but- in the past, drake-nim… that… there.”

“There is almost nothing I remember about my life back then. I’m sorry I couldn’t help you.”

There was only one thing that attracted Fernand’s attention no.

He was the son of a sea god, a member of the undine family, and an NPC who was a ‘mermaid’.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Damn it! If they find out that I escaped, there is a chance that there are fishmen around here-”

“Abababababa, I don’t know, I don’t know! We decided to discuss it together later, so just wait!”

In that way, important keywords circulated again and again in the New Serpent.

As the sun set, on the 40th morning of the voyage, Leeha logged out in good spirits. He could not even dream of what state he would be in when he returned.

(To be continued…)
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 “Group 3 is back! Group 4, rest well, and see you the day after tomorrow!”

As soon as they connected, Pei Wu announced their return by using Lion’s Roar. The members of group 3 were also users who were logged out when Leeha killed the giant albatross.

Leeha stretched after confirming their return.

“Ugh, so it’s only about 10 hours in reality. wash, sleep, eat, and that’s it.”

“It’s not like you could sleep that much. Have a good sleep, eong-ah.”

“Alright, Kijung-ah. Work hard.”

Leeha tapped Kijung on the shoulder and logged out. Following Leeha, the members of group 4 logged out one by one.

“I’m sleepy.”

“This is when you can sleep well.”

Ram Hwajung and Lee Jiwon.

“Sleep tight! Let’s meet again with more energy.”

Fire mage ‘Pyro’ and Taoist Baeju.

“We’ll lay down flooring that will speed up your stamina recovery, so recover there when you have time! It will last about 3 hours!”

“I left the charts with Captain Drake! Nothing bad will happen during the two-day voyage, so please take care of it!”

Saint Raphaela and Fernand.

“Kiskis, let’s go quickly.”

“Haaah, I’m really dying. It’s not normal, really.”

Biyemi and Jin Gonggong.

“Then…. please take care, Yongyong-ssi??”

“Y-yes! Do not worry. I will do my best this time without standing out.”


“Eung, there’s no need for that. Just tell me what happens.”

And lastly, Chiyou asked the tamer ‘Yongyong’ to record the voyage for the next two days. A total of 10 users logged out in a rotation of four groups.

“Awwwww, I am tormented by the mermaid, and I am tormented by Luger… I am really dying.”

Leeha got out of the capsule trembling and moved to his wheelchair.

While grumbling as if he were in Middle Earth, Leeha simply rolled up some cereal and headed to his computer.

The promise he had made earlier about taking a shower and going to bed was forgotten, and Leeha started looking at posts and the atmosphere in the community.

『Title: New Continent Expedition – Day 30 of Voyage – Latest News. Txt』

『Title: New Dragon Lair discovered in the southwestern part of Minis?!』

『Title: Re: Isn’t it a place beyond the northwestern border?!』

『Title: Re: Re: Both sides are true. Dragons are often seen these days. What’s the reason?』

『Title: Wow, I heard that the number of Kraven users has increased rapidly recently, and the sailing experience is terrible.』

『Title: Hey, I heard there are mermaids. What is their level?』

『Title: It is said that someone is using missiles, isn’t that a scam?』

“Cough, cough, cough. This… No one could confirm it with their own eyes, so only rumors are spreading.”

What people who went on to log out rotation told their acquaintances rapidly spread through the community. However, not all information was spread honestly, and there were also some somewhat absurd rumors.

‘If I could fire a missile, I would just go to the new continent alone. I guess they thought the 『Multi-Warhead Shot』 was a multiple-launch missile… Well if you look at the bigger picture, it’s no different, right?’

The spread range was wide, so unless it was a giant monster like the giant albatross, it had the disadvantage of being impossible to hit all 27 bullets.

However, the individual damage alone will exceed the highest skill damage of most middle-level users.

‘The dragon lair in the southwest of Minis… Green dragon lair. Come to think of it, the little boy I met in front of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair is also a green dragon. Is it his parents? What about the lair in the northwest of Minis?’

Leeha checked not only the community’s titles but also the content of the interesting ones.


It was because Leeha’s greatest strength was the attitude of not investing the precious 10 hours that could be used in reality only on sleeping. Of course, he was already at his physical limits and could not hold out for long.

“If this voyage to the new continent goes well, I can almost get surgery, no?! Uhu, I should sleep first.”

After reading up on information about the old continent of Middle Earth and various rumors for about 3 hours, Leeha went to bed. If three hours have passed in reality, it means that more than 12 hours have already passed in Middle Earth. It was a time when the weather in the sea where the Blue Marlin and the New Serpent passed began to deteriorate quickly.

Baaaaang—-!

“Kyaak-! Kijung-ssiiiiiii!”

“B-Bobae-ssi! Are you okay?”

Thunder roared as lightning struck the sea. Although it was a long distance away from the New Serpent, Bobae quickly hugged Kijung’s arm.

“Hmmm, ‘Are you okay’… It’s a pity that Biyemi isn’t here.”

Hyein, who had no one to joke around with, giggled at that sight. Just a few hours after group 4 logged out, dark clouds gathered in and produced thunder, lightning, and strong waves.

“I’m worried that the ship might capsize.”

“It’ll be okay. The captains of each ship are the best navigators among NPCs. And the users assisting them are also the best users of Kraven.”

Rubini responded to Kidd’s quietly muttered words.

Every time they passed the rolling waves, the bow lifted like a roller coaster, and it was natural to worry about this because it was sinking. It was difficult to even stand on the deck without a lifeline wrapped around one’s waist. Most of the users were already inside the cabin of the Blue Marlin and New Serpent, and only the NPCs operating the ships and a few Kraven users were frantically running around the deck in the rain.

“The wind is getting stronger! Fold the foremast sail! Fold everything except the mizzen mast and the triangular sail!”

“Damn, are the waves getting bigger? Shouldn’t the foremast sail be left half unhooked? It won’t be easy to change direction, right?”

“Fold it now! Just fold it up and wait for power nearby! Just follow Drake’s instructions and do it! Fold it first!”

Babababang——–

With the sound of thunder, the New Serpent rode over a single wave. The waves that bounced against the stern were enough to wet the entire deck.

“Check whether there is any flooding damage in the cabin! Have the wood ready so it could be fixed at any time!”

Ay, ay, captain!


“Pheeeew, on days like this, the answer would be just to drop the anchor and stay still. And the sailing skill will rise a lot.”

One of the Kraven pirate users grumbled as he wiped away the seawater and rainwater as if washing his face.

“No, if you drop the anchor on a day like this, we will sink. Watch Captain Drake at the helm. If we don’t move a little and ride the wave, we will all die. It’s a good thing that Fibiel’s Burke is doing it over there too. If it were a shabby sailor, the Blue Marlin would have already sunk.”

The two ships had been traveling at a certain distance, but the distance rapidly widened after entering the typhoon zone. It wasn’t simply the difference between Burke and Drake. It was because Fibiel’s NPCs who control the Blue Marlin were slightly lower level than Kraven’s NPCs. There were two pirate users of Kraven on the Blue Marlin who could make up for it, but they were of a lower level than the ‘Descendant of a Hero’ Hook, so there was nothing they could do.

‘If a monster pops out like this, it’s all over…’

While Hook was worried as he looked at the pitch-black sea, blue Marlin’s Shin Nara was also looking at the same place and worrying about the same thing.

“Puhaa! Yongyong-nim! What about the scouting situation?”

Shin Nara, who hurriedly entered the cabin after looking at the situation on the deck, asked the tamer while spitting out the seawater and rainwater that entered her mouth.

Her long straight hair was completely wet.

“Uh- first, scouting from the sky is impossible. They say they couldn’t fly in this weather. If they fly above the cloud, they won’t be able to see anything anyway, so it’s useless.”

A hawk fluttered away its wet feathers from the tamer Yongyong’s forearm in the cabin, and Shin Nara’s expression got worse.

“What about under the sea?”

“The condition of the seabed is not good either. Lupins use sound waves instead of light to see, but the waves from falling raindrops on the sea surface keep getting on the way.”

The summoner also shook his head.

“……Damn it. Aerial scouting is not possible, underwater scouting is restricted, and if we can’t even do visual scouting…”

“We are basically blind.”

Alexander calmly sat back and listened to Luger’s words. Luger didn’t like his relaxed attitude.

“Isn’t it time for you to step in, Alexander? If your reptile doesn’t do anything, we will all die.”

Luger glanced at Bailephus, wearing golden armor and leaning against the cabin wall. Even when he said it out loud, baileiphus just snorted. Of course, Alexander was not one to take his time without any faith.

“I left a message to Dr. Doom. 3D maps don’t last long, but she says that she could figure out the location of monsters using a 2D map, and she could do it until we get out of the typhoon zone.”

“Even if it’s a 2D map, doesn’t that mean we won’t know if the enemy is in the air or underwater?”

“We just need to figure out if there’s a monster or not. After that, we just have to go out and check and deal with it ourselves. It’s a pity that Chiyou isn’t here.”

“Cough..”

Luger was about to say another word, but there was nothing particularly lacking in what Alexander said.

Although it was a limited situation, what if they could confirm whether it was in the air or underwater using creatures similar to the summoner’s dolphin, and the air and sea were marked by Rubini’s map?

The only thing they needed to worry about was whether Rubini’s skill duration would last until they left the typhoon zone.

“Ukikikikit! That’s the way it is. Even dog poop can’t be used as medicine! It’s times like this that I look forward to the sur~prise!”

Petyr giggled as he heard Alexander’s words. The occupants of the cabin stumbled every time they rolled over the waves, but he, a member of the Miyaw race, stood as flexibly as a cat without wavering an inch.

“How could you say something like that when you’re not even Korean… By the way, how will we respond if an unseen enemy on the seabed suddenly rushes toward the ship? I think we need to plan in advance. Will Bailephus lift the boat again this time?”

However, users who had already experienced an underwater attack once were already prepared for it.

“Ah! W-we could do that.”

“What? Snare?”

“I got help from the dragon last time… That on the bottom of the ship – the waterline?

We set up traps centered around those areas.”

“Ah… trap…”

Shin Nara nodded.

“I-I am not a descendant of a hero but- it wouldn’t be easy for a monster of any size to touch the lower part of our ship.”

“It won’t be easy. I had a hard time when matched with Snare in the tournament.”

The tamer Yongyong shook his head. Although he stuttered and was somewhat unreliable, the users of the Blue Marlin were well aware of his skills.

A trapper who handled traps.

It was no exaggeration to say that his traps that utilized mana, as well as traps simply based on mechanical principles, were truly an attack armor.

“Right. I saw it when I was reviewing the video with Leeha-ssi.”

Users not only set up traps all over the place but also set up invisible traps on their own bodies and rush. The users who counterattacked hastily without properly responding to the absurd attack method were struck back by the triggering of a trap.

Although they had things in place to avoid the worst situation, it didn’t eliminate their anxieties.

The typhoon zone spewed out wind and rain with no end in sight, and with each wave, the users became more and more exhausted. In Middle Earth, where even the shaking of the brain was implemented, the section of the cabin where seasickness could be avoided was only big enough for one or two people.

“Ugh… I feel like throwing up.”

“What happens when you vomit in Middle Earth? I don’t think I could-”

“Don’t say that, I can imagine it. Eub-”

Even though they were selected for the new continent expedition, there were not many people who were used to seasickness. It’s been about three hours since one person and another laid down in the cabin and started sailing again.

Paak-! Alexander stood up holding his spear.

“Alexander?”

Shin Nara looked at Alexander with a worried face, but his actions were urgent.

“Baileiphus, let’s go.”

“Okay.”

“W-where are you going?”

The cabin door made a bang sound. Alexander shouted as he rolled over and ran out.

Bababang—–!

“Unidentified object found ahead!”

The shouts mixed with the sound of thunder were extremely ominous.

(To be continued…)
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 The users of the New Serpent moved faster than Alexander of Blue Marlin. It was because they were looking at Rubini’s map in real-time.

“Where?”

“Which direction?”

“11 o’clock from the bow, the distance is approximately 600m!”

How she knew the direction and distance while wearing an oracle’s mask wasn’t important anymore.

The users’ eyes focused on the direction Rubini pointed.

“Can’t you see?”

“The rain- is too heavy!”

“All I can see is water droplets bouncing!”

“Kidd, don’t you have the skill to see far away? Like Leeha-”

“Me and him have different attributes.”

It would have been sufficiently visible at 600m distance from the sea without any obstruction from the environment. However, it was different now, because the roiling waves were no different from ‘moving hills’.

Even though it was only 600m ahead at 11 o’clock, there were too much blocking their view.

“It looks like something is floating…”

“Hmmm, it’s moving. Right? Doctor Doom! That thing is moving, right?”

“What do you see Bobae-ssi?”

Kidd was not the best at finding the target that was onboard the ship at the moment.

Among the long-ranged dealers, there was a top ranker among them, archer Bobae, who was ranked 10th. Her vision for using a bow was also impressive.

“Yes… But it’s not coming this way- it’s going from 11 o’clock to 10 o’clock. Why?”

Rubini looked at the map in confusion.


Isn’t what was coming a monster? What on earth was the object floating on the sea surface?

“Ahh! Hurry! We have to get there quickly! Young master!”

Boom, boom, boom! While the users were getting flustered, the mermaid behind them flopped and approached Drake.

“What’s going on?”

“Over there- we have to go to the one who is over there! He is-”

From the 10 o’clock direction of the New Serpent, 470m away. It was clear why the mermaid near the users, who were looking at the sea, was in a rush.

“-the Sea God’s Guard Captain!”

Because it was someone he knew. The mermaid’s cry toward Drake was also heard by the users.

“The guard captain is here…?”

While Drake pondered for a moment, the object entered Bobae’s eyes completely.

“Wow, is this real?! A mermaid! It’s a mermaid again! Oh, and it looks like something is coming from behind it too. Doctor Doom! That thing- no, what’s behind the mermaid?”

Swimming and moving like a dolphin at the sea surface was clearly a mermaid. However, as the mermaid’s direction of movement was strange, the spray of water behind it was also not a normal phenomenon.

“… No. I don’t detect anything.”

“Nothing? Something is moving-”

Chwaaaa, chwaaa, chwaaa

At that moment, something was sticking out as if it was tearing the sea surface apart.

The sea was dark with no sunlight due to the dark clouds of the typhoon, but it was clearly visible to the eyes of the users, including Bobae.

“What is that…?”

“A fish? No, what kind of fish-”

“W-why didn’t my map catch it?”


When the users were surprised with their own reasons, the mermaid next to Drake shouted again. Only then did everyone understand why he was screaming so urgently.

“Oh, it’s a fishman—–!”

***

“It’s a fish!”

“It really is a fish with arms and legs!”

“And it’s big!”

“Captain Drake! What should we do!?”

The users looked at each other.

After all, what would happen now without Fernand? Although the overall leader of the New Continent expedition was Alexander, the one with the strongest voice on the New Serpent was, of course, fernand.

Fernand was not there, and even Leeha, who took the lead in doing something, was logged out. There weren’t many people to unite the remaining users.

The good news was that there were several guild masters from famous guilds present. They knew exactly when to step up.

“Let’s rescue him! Fernand-nim and Leeha hyung mentioned it before! Let’s rescue him first, and it’s not too late to decide after we see the status of the quest!”

“I contacted the Blue Marlin! They said that Alexander and Burke are also heading that way!”

“I will install the searchlight totem on top of the mast, so everyone prepare for battle!”

Byulcho’s guild master Kijung, dragon Knight’s guild master Gaeryong, and Seomgwang’s guild master Eunchon. The three men stepped up without regard for who was first and reorganized their battle lines.

“Got it! No matter how many fishmen there are, our boat shouldn’t be any slower! Captain Drake! What are your instructions?”

“Full speed ahead. I will control the rudder myself. Loosen all sails!”

“Waa? Is he crazy? In this weather-”

『Wave Negate』!”

Paaaa!


Immediately after the light flashed from Drake’s body, the New Serpent no longer shook.

“Oh, indeed..”

“It’s that skill.”

A super-NPC skill that even Kraven users have never seen before.

After a while, a bright light flashed from the Blue Marlin. It was Burke’s skill that could also ignore all waves approaching the ship for a short period of time.

When Eunchon on the New Serpent and Rodin, on the Blue Marlin, climbed up to their main mast and completed the installation of the searchlight, only two beams of light remained in the dark sea.

However, from the users’ perspective, it wasn’t the case.

“Oh my…”

“There are so many.”

Sprays continued to bounce from the area illuminated by the searchlights.

It was because so many fishmen were chasing after the Sea God’s guard that Gaeryong cursed without realizing it.

“Haa, haa, human…? How did a human ship reach here?”

“Hakit!? Humans-”

“Hakit! Kill the mermaid first.”

Both the mermaid and the fishmen reacted to the sudden light in the same way. However, neither species approached the ship.

It was natural for mermaids, who have not interacted with humans for a long time, to avoid ships. Moreover, the only purpose of the fishmen was to chase after the Sea God’s guard captain.

“Shit! They’re not coming this way?”

“On the Blue Marlin, summoner Elmin and Tamer Yongyong are preparing to rescue the mermaid! On our side-”

“I will go myself!”

When Bobae, who was in contact with the Blue Marlin, asked, the mermaid volunteered.

“If the mermaid goes and encounters a problem-”

“I will assist with my water magic.”

“I will also apply a skill. For the time being, I will take care of the damages that mermaid-ssi will receive.”

“As long as the distance is not too far away, it will be fine.”

Bobae looked worried for a moment, but when Jin, the Elementalist hero’s descendant, and Kijung, came forward, she could no longer stop it. Since time was tight, there was no time to think and calculate anything.

“The guard captain can only get on this ship safely when I go!”

“… Okay, then, mermaid-ssi, Jin-ssi, and Kijung-ssi, get ready! For other users, please focus on the fishman following the mermaid from behind! Now without Fernand-ssi, we don’t know their level or strength! We can’t relax!”

“This is it, who would dare relax if the ‘Archer’ is the one saying that?! I will give the first shot! 『Gaebolg』!”

As Bobae rallied them, Gaeryong smiled and raised his arms.

What appeared above his palm was a spear of mana. As a lancer, the strongest skill he could do began to be created.

The distance between the New Serpent, which ran through the sea while ignoring the waves, and the Sea God’s guard captain and the fishmen was already less than 300m.

Kidd with a lifeline wrapped around his waist, also approached the end of the deck.

“I’m ready too.”

While the fishmen were momentarily flustered from the Gaebolg, the Crimson Geckos burst into flames. Kidd was someone who knew how to communicate with the people around him without saying much.

“Hwaaaap-!”

Gaeryong, whose forearms swelled to the point of bursting, threw the mana spear.

The mana spear Gaebolg, whose accumulative energy glided across the surface of the water and approached the fishman. Pachichit!

‘An attack power similar to Gaeryong is enough. How much damage does it take to make it an instakill?’

Gulp, Bobae also shot arrows at the fishmen and watched the scene.

Just before Gaebolg finally impaled the fishman, the users of the Blue Marlin and New Serpent had to witness an amazing sight.

Teeeen…

It was similar to a lightly ringing bell. But it wasn’t a bell.

“Uh?”

『Wild Burn』, hmm?”

“What is it?”

Gaebold collided with a pure white weapon held by the fishman. The fishman crossed the bone-like object in the shape of an x and swatted Gaebolg away.

“Hamut! Without a doubt, hakit! It’s magic!”

The fishman shouted at the top of his voice with a cough-like noise. As if showing off its power to humans.

“Hakikikikit!”

Haki, haki, hai, haki!

It was at that time that the fishmen started making strange cries as a group. It was quite a creepy scene.

“… It could repel Gaebolg…?”

“How high is its level? No, what is its stats…?”

“… Do fish have vocal chords? How can they speak?”

“Kijung-ssi!”

“I’m sorry, Bobae-ssi.”

The fear the New Serpent felt was also felt by those in the Blue Marlin.

“I met Gaeryong at the guild battle against Hwahong. He is by no means weak…”

“Do you remember fighting an idiot who couldn’t catch a fish?”

“Pei Wu, you got hit too.”

“Watch your mouth, Luger.”

“Hmmph, you better watch your mouth. Because from now on, I don’t think it’s a place for idiots like you. Reptile! Fix my body!”

Slam!

Luger commanded Bailephus without hesitation while holding up the 『Cobalt Blue Python』. The gold dragon frowned for a moment but cast a spell obediently…

He knew at least at this moment which strategy would be best.

“Hold until the mermaid is rescued, Luger.”

“I know, so shut up, Alexander.”

Baaaaaaaaaang———-!!!

Luger’s rifle opened fire on the bow of the Blue Marlin. Sea water splashed like a fountain as his rifle exploded through the sea surface.

“Hmmph, they are just a bunch of fish. I can-”

Luger snorted and loaded the next shell, but his eyes suddenly widened.

“Hmm?”

It was because the number of fishmen within the searchlight’s illumination range did not change.

If they were hit from the distance by Luger’s cannon with tremendous penetrating power, they would never be able to survive.

“No… didn’t they get hit?”

The fishmen had speed that matched their strength.

“Damn, are you saying that checks don’t even work? Bailephus. Do you personally want to reward them with magic?”

“Alright. But it would be difficult for me to use area of effect magic as it could damage the ship. We shortened the distance meaninglessly.”

Alexander’s expression finally hardened a little.

It only took a moment for the gold-armored knight to turn into a gold dragon.

『Flame Strike!』

Hwaaaaaak—!

The flames flew straight toward the fishmen.

“Hakya- Water jet! Water jet!”

Hakyuuu! Hakyuuu!

And the fishmen were a little different from ordinary monsters.

Blue particles gathered in front of the fishmen’s snouts and soon turned into water cannons and began to shoot seawater like bullets.

(To be continued…)
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TL: xLordFifth There were more than 25 Flame Strikes, but more than 50 water cannons were flying toward those Flame Strikes.

Tsssssssssssss…!

『… Can a water spirit of low purity produce this much power? A water cannon from a water spirit that isn’t even part of the Undine clan-』

“… The mermaid over there! Come this way! We will save you!”

Seeing his skill being negated, Bailephus was momentarily confused, Alexander quickly ran.

And all that remained from the other users’ minds were ‘danger signals’. All they thought about was how to get out of the situation quickly.

However, Alexander’s voice did not reach the mermaid in the dark sea, where human speech could not be heard properly due to the sound of thunder, lightning, and waves.

The thing that approached the Sea God’s guard captain the fastest was not a ship, but another mermaid.

***

“Guard captain! This way! Come over here!”

“… Anderson?! You were alive?”

“I was rescued by the humans over there and survived!”

“Did you bring those humans?”

While Anderson, the NPC Mermaid who was fascinated by the skills of the expedition members including Leeha, tried to convince the Sea God’s guard captain, the fishmen had narrowed their distance.

“Yes! They are incredibly talented people! They could be our strength-”

Splash-!

A fishman dove in and interrupted Anderson.

Just by its size alone, it was already 1.5 times larger than a mermaid, and it was a monster with human-like legs and arms.

The only difference was that their hands and feet were webbed.

However, they had no problem wielding their dangerous weapons.


“Hakit, hakit-!”

Fortunately, fishmen were not the only ones who had narrowed the distance from the mermaids.

A woman standing with one foot on the bow of the New Serpent raised her voice.

『Bounce Arrow!』

Shweeeeek—-!

There was only one arrow that cut through the wind. But it was enough. Just before the fishman swung its weapon at Anderson, the arrow struck the fishman’s back.

“Hakyukyu!”

The fishman was unable to overcome the force of the arrow strongly hitting its back and was pushed away. But surprisingly, the arrow also bounced off the fishman’s scales without piercing it.

The players watching from the deck screamed.

“It couldn’t get through! No way!”

“Are you saying that it can’t be pierced by the arrow of a ranker in the top 10?”

“Bobae-ssi’s arrows couldn’t even pierce the scales of the fish-”

“That is not the case!”

Bobae’s arrow was different from usual. After the arrow bounced off the first fishman like a rubber ball, it flew toward another nearby fishman.

It even retained the strength it had when it was shot.

“It’s a magic arrow that endlessly bounces toward the same type of monster!”

Teuuung-!

Teuuung-!

Teuuuug-!

“Hakiiit, hakit!”


It was at that time that the formation of the fishmen, who were flocking towards the Sea God’s guard captain, collapsed.

The arrow constantly flying between the fishmen was almost artificially intelligent itself.

“Damn iiiiit! I should save face for the Dragon Knights. Again, 『Gaebolg』!”

“You need to give it your all first. As Alexander said, even if it’s called escape after rescue… What you need now is-”

Dadadataaaang—!

“- is a clear check!”

Kidd was the one who woke up the users around him, but he had a bitter taste in his mouth.

Four bullets hit four fishmen, all of which hit accurately, but none of them died.

The users of the Blue Marlin, who saw the New Serpent’s struggles, also got out of their daze.

Do skills not work? Why are the fishmen ridiculously strong? Those questions needed to be asked at another time!

“I learned something from Bobae again. 『Siege Form』.”

The person standing on the deck of the Blue Marlin carried a huge crossbow on his back. If the monster at using a bow was Bobae, then when it came to using a crossbow, no one could beat him.

‘Armboost’, a tournament participant from Minis, quickly raised his crossbow.

“Isn’t it a crossbow at best?”

“My crossbow is faster than your bullet.”

His body hardened as he cast his skill. The crossbow and his body became one, like a siege weapon ballista.

“What? This-”

『Power Pull.』

Huuuuk-!

The thick crossbow string was pulled as if it was getting torn apart.


Luger tried to say something, but before he could open his mouth, the bolt had already left the crossbow.

Booooooooool—– Kwaak-!

The bolt had enough power to make an eerie sound of blowing wind even in a storm, completely impaling a fishman and disappearing into the sea.

“-this… arrogant guy.”

Even if the fishman wasn’t dead, it would struggle in the sea for a long time until the bolt completely lost its strength.

Luger’s mouth closed.

“What’s the point of having a strong skill if you can’t hit? All attacks start from the enemy, Luger.”

“Damned German.”

“You’re a German too, so don’t say things like that. It’s like spitting on your own face.”

“It, it, it’s because I didn’t buff myself earlier! 『Cannon Reinforcement: Flak Cannon』 Seeing Armboost not losing a word, Luger’s competitive spirit was ignited.

Luger with his buffed Cobalt Blue Python and Armboost who had been strengthened to the level of a siege weapon.

Baaaaaang, booooooom, baaaaaang, booooooom

The two people who stood at the deck of the Blue Marlin could not have been more reliable.

***

“Slow Down.”

“Slow down! Rescue the mermaid!”

At Drake’s words, the Kraven user urged the NPCs.

“Tell summoner Elmi and tamer Yongyong to take the mermaid aboard New Serpent along with Anderson!”

“Understood! Everyone, please do your best to protect Hyein-nim!”

“Don’t worry, I got it!”

Hyein, Bobae, and Kijung focused on the mermaids that approached 100m away. The users were pushing the fishmen back using all the skills they had, but it was not easy to progress.

If they slowed down and delayed rescuing the mermaids, they could be in danger.

“Uh, huh? Is the Blue Marlin slowing down?”

“Get the fishmen’s attention while we rescue the mermaids!”

“Ah!”

Without Drake saying much after he decided to rescue the mermaids, burke immediately decided on what he should do.

Of course, even without Burke saying a word, drake was able to guess his intentions through the movement of the Blue Marlin.

“Casting has started, 3 seconds to go!”

Hyein focused his mind as he looked at the two mermaids who were almost on the right side of the New Serpent. He needed to grab the space and pull them up.

But the problem was the disrupters.

Many of the fishmen were dealt with by the Blue Marlin, which turned without slowing down, but the number of fishmen swimming directly at the mermaids was by no means small.

“Fishman at 3 o’clock-”

“Hakit!”

A fishman jumped on the surface of the water and tried to swing at the mermaids, but the Elementalist Jin’s skill was faster.

The blurry figure that suddenly appeared on the sea was a horse’s head.

An incredibly large head.

The horse’s head made of seawater opened its mouth and swallowed the fishman.

“Kuroook, Kurook!”

As a fishman who was born in the sea and lived only in the sea, it couldn’t help but be flustered that there was a seawater it couldn’t escape.

But no matter how hard it struggled, it was impossible to escape the kelpie’s mouth.

“Quick, hurry, get them!”

Kuuuuuu…… kuuuuuung……!

It was then that a huge amount of water began to splash near the Blue Marlin.

In addition to the shots of Luger and Armboost, the trapper’s snare had begun to activate, meaning that the fishmen were about to board the ship.

『Space Grab』!”

Finally, after Hyein’s casting, the two mermaids began to rise into the air.

“Hikyaaaa! Don’t let them go!”

“Hydro Needle!”

“Hydro Needle!”

The fishmen dove back into the water and spewed sharp water cannon from their mouths.

Water cannons that were strong enough to cancel Bailephus’ Flame Strike were fired at the mermaids.

“No! We have to stop then-”

“It’s okay! I knew they would use that again! 『Seal of Protection』!”

It was a templar’s protection skill that took the damage for the target instead.

Shwaaaaah!

Kijung, who was standing near the deck holding a shield and sword, quickly cast a skill on the mermaids.

Perhaps the Sea God’s guard captain knew what skill had been cast, he hugged Anderson and tried to block the Hydro Needle with his body. The water cannon hit as if it would pierce the body of the Sea God’s guard captain, which was wrapped in a blue membrane.

“Cough, w-what? The damage is no joke?”

Of course, Kijung took the brunt of the damage. He quickly opened his character window to check his HP and his expression became stiff.

Fortunately, Hyein got them up on the deck before they could take another hit! Kijung deactivated his skill and quickly drank a potion.

“Waa, mermaid rescue complete!”

“… I whispered to Alexander! Andersion! How can we get out of here?! Where there are no fishmen!”

“Uh, the area all around here is the area of the Dragon Palace-”

“Hakit, hakyuuuut-”

Chwak, chwak, chwak!

While Bobae tried to ask for directions, several fishmen approached from the bottom of the sea and jumped to the New Serpent.

“Hakit, human- give us the mermaids!”

“Let’s kill the mermaid first, hakut!”

Even though they were underwater, they had overwhelming strength and were able to climb up to the deck of a huge skip with just one jump.

Where should they go? How should they get there?

The distance between the New Serpent and the Blue Marlin began to increase in an instant. On a stormy sea, the heavy storm and uninvited guests other than the waves were enough to distract the users.

***

“Hakit- Hakyuuuu-!”

“Ugh, did you see their gills opening every time they make that weird breathing sound?”

“How could you notice something like first in this situation? That’s amazing, Kijung-ssi. 『Spread Arrow』!”

Bobae shook her head and pulled the bowstring.

It was an awkward sight to pull the bowstring without an arrow, but when the bowstring was released, dozens of mana arrows were shot.

The arrows spread out over 90 degrees in front of Bobae, and the translucent mana arrows made a crackling sound and penetrated the scales of the fishmen.

“Kyuwat!”

“Kyusiit!”

Those who were hit with one or two arrows were pushed back, and those who were hit with three or four arrows fell flat on their backs. Bobae is great! Someone cheered, but the celebration was too early as the fishmen who fell got up again after a while.

“Excuse me… Bobae-ssi? What is the damage of that skill?”

“If they could survive being hit by four shots- well, I don’t even know how to express it.”

“The fishmen are certainly overwhelmingly stronger than ordinary monsters, so we must hurry and throw them overboard! 『Reverse Gravity』!”

“Hakyuuu-”

Tadaaaaaaaang—-!!!

Six bullets were fired in succession at the fishman that was floating in the air.

Having already been hit by Bobae’s arrows, the fishman was unable to withstand Kidd’s bullets and finally turned gray.

“This is bad, this is extremely bad!”

“It would have been nice if Biyemi or Pyro were here at a time like this.”

“Don’t look for those who are not here, hurry up and fight!”

Kuuuuuu!

As the expedition members of Blue Marlin and New Serpent were fighting the fishmen, the fishmen continued to climb the ships.

They were stronger, faster, and had more health than regular monsters, but once the fishmen were understood, it was not difficult to deal with them. At least for the users who held the title “New Continent Expedition Member”.

TL’s notes:

I usually don’t like chapters where Leeha doesn’t appear. But this chapter was intense, and I liked it.
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 “Drive them out!”

“They are weak to flank attacks! Their front area is small, so there are only a few places to hit! It is better to attack them from the side, except for those who aggro!”

『Cyclone Kick』!”

One more, one more!

Due to the users’ coordinated attack, the fishmen began to fall out of the ship.

Unfortunately, not all users had good skill cooldowns, hP, or MP. It wasn’t simply because they were late in understanding the pattern. It was because the fishmen were stronger than most monsters from the Old Continent.

“Last one, 『Iron Claw』!”

Baaaaang-!

A fishman was thrown off the deck due to the skill used by ‘Bald Panda’ with all his might. By navigating the stormy sea, they finally drove them out! However, the crisis still existed because less than half of the fishmen were dead and the other half were thrown out of the ships. In fact, the only goal they achieved was protecting the ship.

“Where are we going?! Are we going to keep dragging them around like this?”

“Anderson!”

“It couldn’t be helped! As long as we are in the waters of the Dragon Palace, they will keep chasing us!”

The mermaid who was caring for the Sea God’s guard captain, who had almost fainted, cried out.

“How much further do we have to go before we can escape the waters of the Dragon Palace?”

“In this direction, at this rate, it will take at least 40 days. Or if we go back, maybe a day or so…”

“What?”

Shwaaaaa….. Bababaaaang.

The rain and wind still poured down, and a ray of lightning struck the surface of the water in the distant sea and thunder rumbled. The users were speechless. No one could bring it up first. What helped them make that decision was a word from Drake.

“The duration of the Wave Negate is not long. If we are affected by the waves, we will be overtaken by the fishmen.”

A cry was heard from the main mast.


“Th-th-there, ahead- there are a lot of spray ahead! Rubini-nim, is there anything marked on the map?!”

“There is none. Did something else appear?”

“More than a hundred fishmen are swimming this way!”

What did it mean if more than a hundred monsters were added, monsters that could not be detected by Rubini’s map, and monsters that required so much skill, hP, and MP to deal with only 30 of them?

Since the main mast of the Blue Marlin also had torchlight installed, they also knew the situation.

“Turn the bow. Make it the top priority to get out of the Dragon Palace’s area.”

Alexander immediately decided. It was the first time the ship of the New Continent Expedition, which had sailed for 41 days without hesitation, retreated.

“Haa… Haaa.. Yongyong-nim, elmi-nim! Please report the scouting situation!”

“We can’t see those who are following us on the sea surface!”

“It’s the same on the sea floor. I think they have finally given up the chase.”

“I, phew, understand…”

The tamer and the summoner relayed information brought by their respective pets. Pei Wu nodded once and lay down on the deck.

“Hwaaa, I guess we can finally take a breather. Hey, Kraven brats! Come and take the helm!”

“Damn it, the NPCs should do it, when things like this are going-”

“Are you going to ignore the captain’s orders!?”

“Understood!”

One of Kraven’s pirate users weakly answered and went on the helm to switch with Burke.

The sky just one nautical mile away from the Blue Marlin was still dark. It wasn’t just because the sun had set. The intermittent sound of thunder was now very faint, but there was no sign of the storm disappearing.

“… The storm is just concentrated there.”

“That’s exactly what I wanted to say, Alexander. It’s not a natural phenomenon.”


Alexander sat cross-legged, took a deep breath, and looked behind him. He was in a slightly better situation compared to the users who were exhausted everywhere, but there was no way he wouldn’t be tired.

“Of course! Isn’t that something you should have felt right from the moment we entered?! Damn it, it is somewhat ominous. I wonder what idiot captain would steer his ship to a place like that, but I never thought that it would be me.”

The NPC Burke also knew that the man in golden armor next to Alexander was the ancient gold dragon, but it was proof that he had no time to be polite.

“Thank you for your hard work.”

Alexander lightly thanked Burke. The past 24 hours had been such that he wondered if there would be more such hardships. It was truly a desperate endeavor to rescue the Sea God’s guard captain and escape from the sea full of dark clouds. The highly difficult retreat, in which they had to fight off the fishmen who were literally swimming after them without a single moment of rest, and drove the ships to a place with the weakest wind even in a typhoon to maintain speed, had just ended. The situation was no different with the New Serpent, which was 300m away from the Blue Marlin.

“Ahhhh, I’d rather do a dragon raid… I feel like someone beat my whole body…”

The person who looked particularly haggard was Kijung.

Because there was almost no one else who could act as a tanker, he essentially took all the damage in the New Serpent by himself.

“Was it hard, Kijung-ssi?”

“It was hard… Leeha-hyungnim is really lucky. They left at the exact time.”

“Biyemi-ssi and Lee Jiwon-ssi as well.”

Kijung even threw away his shield as he lay down on the deck. Hyein also collapsed helplessly next to him.

“What about Ram Hwajung and Pyro? Phew, our country’s ship must have felt like they are dying because of the lack of combat personnel. Unfortunately, people with high burst potential were in group 4, so we got so tired.”

“It’s a pity Fernand-ssi was not here. He is not here when we need to reorganize the sailing schedule and routes…”

Even Rubini and Bobae expressed disappointment. Until the expedition departed, the composition and proportion of logout rotation groups 1, 2, 3, and 4 were roughly similar, but as the voyage continued, each member of the expedition could see their importance had changed slightly.

However, no one brought up the idea of changing the rotation, and even if they did, it would hurt someone’s pride, so everyone just let it be. That’s exactly what resulted in this incident.

“… Ha Leeha must come.”

The users did not miss Drake’s muttering.

“Yes? Leeha hyung?”

Kijung barely raised his head and asked, but Drake did not answer and asked the mermaid NPC.


“Anderson, is there no way back?”

“At least as far as I know. It was like that when I escaped. Since the fishmen came out, the storm over the waters of the Dragon Palace had not ended.”

“If it were the entire sea area, there would be no way back… Is the Sea God’s guard captain awake?”

“No, not yet… Daoist Mu is still healing him, but he couldn’t do it alone.”

“Ugh.”

Of course, the conversation between the two NPCs, drake and the mermaid, was not simply a conversation. To the surrounding users, each and every word was a hint.

‘There’s a correlation between the fishmen and the storm. Is a quest going to come out?’

‘We will find out more details when the Sea God’s guard captain wakes up. Chim, it’s a shame that Saint Raphaela is in group 4.’

‘But what did he mean when he muttered Ha Leeha-ssi’s name? When it came to the route, we need Fernand-ssi more.’

While the tired users were lost in their own thoughts, the sun gradually sunk into the distant sea. The 41st night of the voyage. However, the sailing distance based on the Old Continent remained the same as on the 39th day, and the Blue Marlin and New Serpent were just aimlessly circling the surrounding sea.

Shyuuk-! Shyuuk-! Shyuuk-!

Perhaps because they were already familiar with the intersection of Middle Earth and reality, all Group 4 users logged in at the same time, as if it was planned.

“Hwaaaaa, I slept well. Good morning, everyone!”

“Kiskis, I feel good after eating a lot of food.”

“I’m sleepy.”

“Oh, my? Why is everyone’s expression so bad? What happened?”

Leeha, Biyemi, Ram Hwajung, and Raphaela, as well as Daoist Baeju, Chiyou, and Pyro from the Blue Marlin, were confused as they looked at their surrounding.

“What? Kijung-ah? Why are you lying down? Bobae-ssi, what happened to you? Did a monster appear?”

“… Hearing that carefree sound makes me feel energetic again.”

Kidd sighed as he watched Leeha change the magazine into the Black Bass. Even with his hat pressed down, his haggard face was instantly recognizable.

“What’s wrong with you? R-really. Ah! Everyone from group 1! You can log out now! Sleep well!”

Leeha shouted energetically, but the users from Group 1 did not respond or log out.

The user who was in group 4 with Leeha who had a vague sense of the situation was Fernand.

“Huh? What? Isn’t the direction of the sun strange?

“Captain Drake! The route-”

“We are currently circling around the same spot.”

“- what?”

“Huh? What kind of monster came out?”

Fernand and Leeha tilted their heads at the same time. It was also the reason why group 1 waited for them without even being able to log out.

“Group 4 is here everyone! Haaaa, we will tell you… everything that happened. Ah! Raphaela, could you please go inside the cabin?”

“Yes? Ah, yes.”

“There is another mermaid there, the Sea God’s guard captain. Please treat him. He couldn’t wake up even with the treatment from Daoist Mu.”

Just hearing Bobae speak to Raphaela made Leeha get a feel of the situation. Something had happened that made them do something similar to docking the ship.

“Listen to the explanation first. They said everyone would come over here after the explanation on the Blue Marlin is over, so let’s talk.”

The users of group 4 listened to the story of what happened in the past 2 days on their respective ships. In general, they were stating facts, but it could not be objective because they were described while being incorporated with the experiences of the users who have dealt with the fishmen. The only thing that group 4 could be sure of was that the fishmen were stronger than any monster in the old continent. That wasn’t the only problem.

“… The storm won’t go away?”

“We will find out more details when the guard captain wakes up. It probably has something to do with how the fishmen were born.”

Baileiphus nodded and answered.

“Oh……. Then? Captain, you have two skills- no, anyway, they can accelerate the ship, you were not able to get rid of the fishmen chasing you in the water?

“The skill does not last forever.”

“So Leeha, I need you.”

“Me? What can I do against the storm? Should I try to hit the eye of the storm?

“Are you kidding? It’s that, that.”

Drake extended his fingers and pointed at the flustered Leeha. Even after getting called out, Leeha still did not understand Drake’s intention.

“That… why is he pointing at him?”

“Maybe he just wanted to point his finger at eong-ah?”

As Kijung quietly muttered, the users, including Biyemi, giggled.

The atmosphere on the entire new continent expedition team brightened just by Leeha logging in.

“I am talking about that coat.”

“Coa- ah! Ahhh! Right, right!”

Drake sighed as he looked at Leeha’s foolish behavior.

“Could it be that you’ve never used it before?”

“I did not have any activity in the sea! That’s right, there was that!”

“There’s no need to be at sea to use it, but..”

Drake’s gaze changed slightly. His gaze, which used to be looking at something interesting, had become a bit like looking at a simpleton.

Of course, it was not surprising to those who knew Leeha’s personality well in the first place. Most users, even Burke, shook their heads.

(To be continued…)
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“Eong-ah, I remember it as well. When you showed me the coat, it said you could use the skill 『Perfect Storm』. You haven’t used it?”

“P-pipe down! I am going to check it now!”

Leeha looked sheepish and opened his skill window.

『Perfect Storm – Range Limit』

Desciption: Calm seas can be made rough and rough seas can be made calm. The only clothing imbued with the power of the Sea God’s protection and can borrow the Sea God’s power.

Effect: Creates and destroys storm within a 300m radius.

Mana: Changes depending on the strength of the storm. (0-5000)

Duration: Changes depending on the strength of the storm.

Cooldown: Changes depending on the strength of the storm.

To be rough, or to be calm. It meant that it could control the appearance and disappearance of storms. Leeha could quickly tell just by looking at the description and effect of the skill, but the condition was not easy.

“Hmm… It seems like the mana consumption is enormous. I need a lot more mana than my total mana…”

It was a unique skill with no grade or level. Although Leeha did not know for sure, he could make a rough guess.

‘I heard from Kijung that the entire area above the Dragon Palace is a storm zone… Moreover, it is said that traversing it was not easy.’

It was bound to be difficult to handle for Leeha as the skill has the possibility of using up to 5000 mana, and his total mana was 1,400.

“I will be the one to wear and use it.”

“No, Ram Hwajung can’t wear it. The prerequisite for equipping this coat is that you must have a certain achievement…”

“You have no achievement related to the Sea God, right?”

Ram Hwajung lowered her head without confirming. She looked like she was recalling all the achievements she had gotten up to date.

“Hyung-nim! What achievement? What level? Can I trade for my achievements?”


Lee Jiwon’s eyes brightened at the word “achievement” and approached, but he didn’t have it either.

Anyone who does not have the achievement ‘Recognized by the Son of the Sea God’, someone who Drake truly recognized, could not wear the coat.

Except for one person.

“I will use it.”

Drake extended his hand toward Leeha.

The moment Leeha handed him the coat, the cabin door opened. A person, no, a mermaid, approached and threw his body so loudly that it made a puk, puk, sound.

“You- you haven’t recovered yet! Your HP is continuously decreasing-”

“A-are you really the prince?”

The guard captain crawled on the floor and approached Drake.

“… It’s been a while, sea Bream.”

“Prince! You really, you really came to save us-”

“No… that’s not it. I just happened to pass by this area at the request of my king. And I am no longer one of his children. Please stop calling me a prince.”

Drake slightly pushed Sea Bream, the Sea God’s guard captain, away, who was clinging to him, crying.

However, it was definitely not a ‘coincidence’ that he was here.

‘To get to the new continent, we have to cross this sea, and there’s no way Drake, who was from here, didn’t know that. Was it because of the Kraven king’s order that he just followed obediently? Or was it with his own choice?’

Leeha could not guess Drake’s inner thoughts. Maybe it was just the flow of the quest.

“Even if you are a human, you are still the prince. How can you say such a thing?”

“Guard captain Sea Bream is right, lord.”

Sea Bream and Anderson clung to Drake intent on holding on to Drake’s pants. Burke grumbled behind Drake but didn’t intervene.

“… That doesn’t mean I have forgotten that time. If that’s the case, then continue calling me prince.”


Drake reluctantly nodded and Sea Bream looked thrilled.

“Of course, prince-nim. If the Sea God knew about this, how happy would he be-”

A reunion between a mermaid and the former son of the Sea God? It may have been an interesting and touching scene, but it did not have much of an impact on the current new continent expedition members.

What they wanted was practical and reliable information! The only person who could possibly have it was the Sea God’s guard captain, sea Bream. Even though Sea Bream was fully aware that the humans in front of him had saved his life, he did not easily let down his guard.

“… I don’t know what or how to tell you.”

“Then, let’s start by telling us what we are curious about. Do you know about a new continent other than the existing continent of humans?”

Fernand asked with his throat trembling.

Sea Bream looked around at the users and looked at Drake’s face before opening his mouth.

“I have never been there.”

“You have never been there? So you’re saying you know where it is?”

“… Maybe.”

Sea Bream’s attitude was somewhat vague. Did he know or not?

“Hmmm… Well then, I will ask another question. Do you know the halfway point between the new continent, which you ‘probably know’, and the old continent of humans?”

Fernand asked again. He tightened his hands so hard that the chart he held crumpled.

At least he had hope and desperation to get something from the mermaid. It was the same sense of responsibility as a member of the second New Continent expedition.

And did Sea Bream feel something from Fernand’s earnestness, or did he do what he had to do as the Sea God’s guard captain?

His answer was unexpected.

No, perhaps it was something that users had vaguely guessed since they rescued the mermaid, ‘Anderson’.

“I know that for sure.”

“Then.”


“I know it’s shameless to talk about this in this situation. But, please do me a favor… if you do me a favor, I will tell you anything.”

Shuuuk-!

What appeared before the eyes of the new continent expedition members was a quest window.

『Cleaning the Purification Pool』

Description: “If the Sea God returns to his original state, there will be no difficulty in driving out the fishmen. However, I cannot get rid of the ‘thing’ on the Purification Pool that polluted the mermaids, much less the polluted Sea God. Maybe no mermaid could get rid of it. Maybe humans could! Please come with me. Even just one person is fine. If you’re a human, there’s a chance that you won’t be contaminated, so please… Please save the Undine clan.”

To eliminate the fishmen’s rebellion and the strange storm, the Purification pool must be returned to its original state. Follow the guard captain Sea Bream and return the waters of the Dragon Palace, including the Sea God, to their original state.

However, as soon as you accept the quest, a skill will be activated, making it impossible to move away from the guard captain at a certain distance.

(Skill Effect will activate even when logging out)

Content: Eliminate the source of the contamination inside the ‘sewer’ owned by the Undine clan.

Reward: Right to acquire 1 item from the Dragon Palace treasure warehouse

Intimacy with all mermaid NPCs + 100%

Advanced Compensation: The location of the ‘central point’ of the Sea of Dawn

Condition of Failure: User’s Death, sea God’s Death, sea Bream’s Death

Penalty for Failure: Achievement: The one who annihilated the mermaids, intimacy with Howard Drake – 100%

– Do you want to accept?

The users quickly read the quest window.

The content of the quest itself was extremely simple. They didn’t know what the ‘Purification Pool’ was, but they just needed to clean it up.

‘If it’s a monster, we just have to catch it. Well, if something else is stuck, we could remove it anyway.’

However, the road to that content was not easy.

Fernand stuttered and asked Sea Bream.

“This ring of water…”

“It is a token of promise. It is shameless to ask this, but… it’s because we still can’t trust humans. I will protect the will of the promiser from wavering.”

Although Sea Bream expressed it moderately, the explanation was clearly visible in the users’ eyes. In other words, it is the same as a movement barrier based on Sea Bream.

‘To prevent escaping? We will really do everything. Is he saying that we just have to follow him?’

As Leeha shook his head, fernand asked Sea Bream again.

“Of course but… is the Purification Pool in the sea?”

“That’s right. Of course, we have to enter the waters of the Dragon Palace.”

“Ah… Well, could you give us a moment? We also need to talk.”

“Of course. I’ll wait as long as you want.”

Fernand asked Sea Bream for understanding. It wasn’t to get permission from the NPC.

It was nothing short of advanced know-how to prevent the quest window from disappearing and being automatically rejected.

“Everyone! If you have read it, let’s have a meeting for a moment!”

Fernand left Sea Bream and called the entire New Continent expedition team into the cabin. The difficult discussion was difficult starting from the start.

“How do we clear it if it’s in the water?”

That was the first challenge. A storm was raging and the fishmen were rushing into the sea. They had to pass there to get to the Purification Pool.

“Wouldn’t the golden reptile’s magic solve our breathing problem?”

“But permanent effect is impossible. I guess I’ll have to go with you.”

Luger asked, giving Bailephus a new nickname. Baileiphus frowned and answered.

“Y-you can’t do that! What if the gold dragon is involved in a quest that may take a long time? When we finish the quest, wouldn’t our ships will already be in shambles? It is impossible for everyone to accept this quest in the first place. Only a select few people should go…

It was Alexander and Baileiphus pair that played the biggest role in escaping from the fishmen.

Of course, it would be a different situation from then, as users with strong short-term bursts of firepower, such as Ram Hwajung and Pyro, were online, but in any case, baileiphus’ loss would be a huge loss of power. The second obstacle. the condition of ‘selected few people’, also came with it, but even that could not be easily decided.

“If you think about it the other way around, no one can go without Baileiphus.”

“Among the talisman skills, there is one related to breathing… That too only lasts for two hours.”

“Even if we two brothers go, there is a high chance that the fishmen will flock on the way to the Dragon Palace.”

Taoist Mu and Taoist Baeju looked at each other and shook their heads.

After the self-buff, they were confident in themselves, but Taoist Mu, who had already experienced the fishmen, had already relayed all the information to Taoist Baeju. That it would be impossible with just the two of them.

“I don’t think I can… The item rewards are desirable, but the chance of dying is much greater. The conditions for failure are strict, and the penalties are also severe.”

“Kiskis, it’s already said that the Sea God was contaminated, but if it appears as a monster… It’s scary just thinking about it.”

“That’s right, if we kill him, the quest will fail.”

Kijung, Biyemi, and Hyein were also skeptical. The same went for Bobae. There wasn’t much she could do.

“In the water, range dealers are just fodders. It confirmed that me, armboost, and the Three Muskeeters will not be able to go.”

Even when users were talking loudly and said one thing at a time, Leeha’s eyes did not leave the quest window. Kidd also read it again and again. Kidd was the one to speak first.

“The nature of the quest is very dirty.”

“What are you talking about, Kidd?”

“Have you not noticed it yet, Luger?”

“Stop showing off and just talk.”

Kidd lifted his hat for a moment, adjusted his hair, and then put his had back on. It gave the time for the users to focus on Kidd with Luger’s words.

“It means that there is no need to clear this quest.”

“What? Why?”

“What we need is not intimacy with the mermaids or items.”

“T-Then…?”

“It is the location of the information. And now, this mermaid named Sea Bream said he would give it as an advanced compensation. This means that if we accept the quest, we will be notified. Do you know what that means?”

Kidd did not answer. It was because the users gathered here had the insight to understand just this much.

‘Indeed… Is Kidd the leader among the Three Musketeers? I thought Leeha thought of everything.’

(To be continued…)
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 Another person had already thought of it before Kidd spoke. Chiyou, who was sitting in the back row, nodded slightly. At the same time, fernand screamed.

“N-no way! D-does this quest have that intention?!”

“Oh my… that’s too cruel! That’s too much!”

“But if you think about it, it makes sense. Now what do these mermaids have to do with us?”

“I didn’t think that we would enter the new continent without blood from the beginning, but this is…”

The users murmured. Now everyone was thinking the same thing as Kidd. Kijung sighed and settled the situation.

“They say people follow their names, but you really are doing as you wanted… what a quest to force one person to sacrifice…”

 The fact that Kidd and the expedition team finally noticed. The advanced compensation is the information about the location. Clearing the quest would be difficult. If that’s the case? One person should volunteer, accept the quest, and after hearing where it is located, tell the expedition members, and ‘die somewhere in the ocean alone’.

“Strictly speaking, they wouldn’t be alone. Because of the 『Ring of Water』, they won’t be able to go anywhere, and they would end up dying together with that mermaid with the long flowing beard.”

Could they say that the situation was better now than when they couldn’t move forward due to the storm? The minds of the expedition members began to spin urgently.

If there were no volunteers for the quest then, of course, there would be a vote.

The basic rule was that no matter what happened, they must survive!

Middle Earth forced competition anytime, anywhere.

Even in the middle of the vast ocean. Who would? The expedition members glanced silently at the other expedition members around them. An atmosphere where no one could step forward because everyone thought the same thing. The tension, distrust, anxiety, and impatience that suddenly spread among the members of the new continent expedition were floating around the cabin.

Kijung: What are you going to do, hyung?

Leeha: What?

Kijung: Looking at this clearly, it means that we should abandon the person who is the most unhelpful.

Leeha: Is that so?

Kijung: What do you mean, is that so? Don’t you understand the atmosphere? Hyung isn’t someone who would be 100% safe too!

Kijung was suspicious of Leeha’s apathetic reaction. If they voted for the scapegoat, the only people who are 100% safe are the top-ranked users, including Alexander.


Simply being a descendant of a hero or having achieved excellent results in the tournament was not enough qualifications.

Most importantly, they were not a team to destroy the fragment of the demon king.

Strictly speaking, the main purpose of the quest was to ‘establish a foundation for a new frontier’ after ‘reaching the new continent’.

For that purpose, the ‘construction of a mana relay tower’ was necessary.

In other words, among the users who had nothing to do other than combat, there was a possibility that those with many overlapping roles would be selected.

Kijung: Not only does Luger overlap with hyung, even Armboost and Bobae, are ranged dealers. Well, considering the purpose of scouting, there is a high chance of hyung surviving, but- .

Leeha: You have nothing to be anxious about anyway.

Kijung: Why not?! Bantal, the barbarian hero’s descendant, is also a tank. Moreover, those giant barbarians and Daoist Brothers are also semi-tankers. In the end, there are 5 tank candidates. The chance of me getting selected is very high!

Kijung admitted the reason for his anxiety to Leeha.

Would he feel safe because he had the legendary sword? No way.

Kijung knew better that Bantal and the Daoist Brothers had hidden cards.

At this point, such a secret weapon was of little help.

“It’s a problem even if someone volunteers. Even if Drake somehow erases the storm… The fishmen will continue to catch up.”

“If the two captains accelerate, the fishmen won’t have the speed to catch up. Well, it is clear that the waters of the Dragon Palace is wide… The acceleration will eventually stop…”

“I guess there won’t be any logouts for the time being.”

Pei Wu politely expressed that he would ‘step up for the greater good’, but in the end, his intention was the same. Hook also appealed himself about the matters of navigation, without refuting Pei Wu’s statement.

The more the ship was in danger, the busier the ship would become. The ship would not move forward simply because the captain of each ship gave orders to the NPCs.

If there were no veteran users to coordinate without the captain giving orders, the fishmen would quickly board the ship.

In the end, hook’s intention was that Kraven users must remain unconditionally.

“It won’t be easy to deal with the fishmen during that period. Now we can only observe them with the naked eye. No matter how we see them during the day, or at night, without Eunchon and my searchlight, the boundaries would be meaningless.”


A sculptor who had a function through his sculptures. However, the duration of the function was not long. Not being able to log out, being chased by fishmen, and having to constantly carve searchlights at the main mast would cause tremendous fatigue.

Rodin had that intention in his words. However, it did not sound that way to the users around them. Gaeryong of the Dragon Knights spoke with a frown.

“It seems like there’s a thorn in Rodin-ssi’s words?”

“Yes? What?”

“Are you trying to tell us that the fishmen weren’t shown in Doctor Doom’s map this time?”

“What? Ah, no. It’s not that-”

Rubini’s somewhat mysterious yet elegant charm as she wore her oracle’s mask. Gaeryong brought the topic up because he wanted to protect her. The only thing he regretted was that he didn’t think more about the repercussions of that statement.

“Did something like that happen?”

“That’s right. You didn’t know because Chiyou was not in the Blue Marlin…”

“Is Rubini’s map ineffective in the New Serpent?”

Someone spoke those words based on Rodin’s statement and Gaeryong’s mistake. It was like a drop of blood that fell into an aquarium with a school of sharks. In an instant, the cabin became quiet. However, the members of the new continent expedition were people who had experience and resembled people from Middle Earth. It was a moment when many opinions came together as to who the sacrifice was, but the proof was that no one was looking back at Rubini.

Kijung once again became afraid of the users in the cabin.

“But… Well, they say to step up for the greater good and make a sacrifice, but to put it bluntly, it is what they want. The leader of the guard or something. Isn’t that right?”

“I feel the same way as my dongsaeng. Someone has to die anyway. Moreover, if it was to ‘sacrifice’… Wouldn’t it be better if they get compensated for the death penalty and the mermaid quest failure penalty?”

Taoist Mu and Taoist Baeju added to each other’s words.

 They must have sufficiently discussed it in whisper before they opened their mouths.

“Kiskis, we will take care of it, so take this and leave.”

Biyemi cynically muttered. Jin Gonggong put his finger in his mouth and shushed. Shh! However, the surrounding users had already heard it. To put it simply, the meaning behind the Taoist brothers and Biyemi’s words was, ‘Let’s pool together to compensate the sacrifice.’

Those who have gathered here were people who held their ground in various fields of Middle Earth. There would also be a lot of valuable information about gold and items, as well as special achievements. What if they collected a few of them and gave it to the person selected as a sacrifice? It may be a little disappointing to receive the penalty, but it also meant that they would be given the chance to recover.

“Oh, that’s a good idea.”


“That’s right. We need to sacrifice someone anyway, so it would be better if there’s no hard feelings, right?”

“Th-then! They could come back once the frontier base is established in the new continent. And the most important 『New Continent Expedition』 quest doesn’t have a death condition, right? Only one person needs to live.”

Although these users were familiar with the details of the quest, they opened the quest window again and reviewed its main content.

『Beyond the Sea of Dawn』

Content:

1.	Construct a mana relay tower on the Sea of Dawn

2.	At least one of the 40 combatants arrives on the new continent

3.	Construction of mana relay tower in the new continent

Conditions for failure: if two or more goals are not achieved.

Death does not directly result in quest failure!

It’s as if it had been anticipating this situation since the quest was first given!

“Hey, if you think about it that way, it’s not even a sacrifice! Rather, you will get good compensation from us! From the new continent to the new continent, you can restore yourself and do other things without going through any trouble!”

“It’s a mess, it’s such a mess!”

You do it! Let’s vote. No such words were said…

However, while instilling dreams of good things to come in the future, they gave Rubini a quick glance, and it was as if the situation had already been concluded. So to speak, it was closer to collective egoism. However, it was natural in the human world to not want to sacrifice one’s self. No one would throw a stone at them. There were a few users who kept their mouths shut while looking at the noisy users. One of them was Leeha.

‘A quest to make a sacrifice… If it’s Middle Earth it is possible.’

But was it really the end?

They wandered through the sea and saved the guard captain of the Sea God to just die?

Leeha reevaluated everything that happened.

‘What can I do? What can I do? Why should I do it?’

While closely examining equipment, achievements, and quest window, Leeha asked and answered the question to himself.

‘It’s Middle Earth. This is Middle Earth. Leeha didn’t know about other people…’

At least Leeha knew.

No, perhaps only Leeha knew. Because he had been stabbed in the back a lot of times while enjoying the game. Middle Earth never went according to Leeha’s expectations. So he doubted again and again.

‘What lies beyond the quest?’

Middle Earth’s intentions weren’t always straightforward. He suspected that there must be something else at the end of this complicated pie-like quest. In the meantime, the atmosphere in the room was almost decided. Even Rubini herself, who was the party involved, just bowed her head and waited to get ‘disposed’ without trying to get herself out of the situation.

She knew as well.

In order for everyone on the new expedition team to survive, the best way was for everyone to step forward and clear the quest. However, she did not have the courage to take the initiative, so she stayed silent, and the other users did not have the confidence to ‘execute’ her directly by expressing their intention to vote, so they waited for her to come forward on her own.

“… You are humane.”

Bailephus spoke quietly, but a few people heard him in the noisy cabin.

Step, step, step.

Before they knew it, Alexander walked into the middle of the expedition team sitting in a circle.

Ranked 1st in the ranking and the expedition leader, of course, he was the person they needed.

Alexander looked at each member of the expedition team and opened his mouth.

“Are there any volunteers willing to sacrifice for humanity?”

As of now, neither Lee Jiwon nor Luger could make fun of him for being a chuunibyo. The atmosphere was instantly suppressed by a single sentence from his deep voice.

The majority of the users did not want to make eye contact with the expedition leader.

Except for one person.

“I will do it.”

The users were momentarily taken aback as they saw the person standing up and raising their hand. Because it was not Rubini…

However, there was someone else who was even more flustered.

“Oh, oooh-! Oooh ah hyung-! Why!?”

“Leeha-ssi!”

Kijung was so flustered that he did not pronounce Leeha’s name properly. All Shin Nara could do was to call his name.

“… If he is just pretending to be cool and hoping that we would stop him, he is wrong.”

“Hehe, I don’t think it’s that bad. But I didn’t know that he would be such a fool to do it himself.”

Kidd and Luger also shook their head slightly. It may look like they are making fun of him or cursing him, but the essence of it was worry and concern. Both of them knew very well that this expedition needed something.

(To be continued…)
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 “Ha Leeha-ssi…? Could it be for me-”

“Ah, well, it’s not like that. Haha. Why are you so surprised by this? It’s a shame that I raised my hand for no reason.”

Leeha walked to Alexander’s side. Leeha looked at the expedition members sitting in a circle one by one. The gazes looking at him contained many emotions. Not only doubt, but also worry, concern, and even relief… Leeha smiled and responded to each and every look.

There was a little bit of worry, but at least the smile didn’t disappear from Leeha’s face.

Leeha opened his mouth with a smile, the enthusiasm that represented confidence.

“Wouldn’t the best way be to clear the 『Mermaid Quest』 and catch up with the new continent expedition again?”

“That’s not possible. What are you talking about?! Eong-ah, you idiot, sit down quickly-”

“That’s not it, Kijung-ah.”

“-what?”

“I can do it.”

“You can do it?”

Kijung asked quietly, looking at Leeha’s expression reassured him. In the quiet cabin, Leeha tilted his head.

“Maybe?”

“I was wondering if you would end it with ‘maybe’!

It was probably natural for Kijung to scream. Even Shin Nara sighed with an anxious expression. Chiyou bit her lip slightly. If Ha Leeha, who was such a thorn in her eye, came forward and decided to become a scapegoat, it would be normal to feel good…

‘What are you thinking? Do you want to clear the mermaid quest? There is no way. There is no way in this situation! Is he claiming that he still has something hidden? If he did, he would have used it a long time ago. Even when subduing the Demon King’s agents, there was nothing different from now. No, he gained the missile-like skills…’

Was he saying that he believed in something like that?

‘That can’t be possible. However, there was no way that several hidden skills like that could have been created… What are your intentions, Ha Leeha? What are you planning to do again?’

Leeha’s words and actions were beyond her understanding, and as the head of the Shinobigumi and the best information guild master in the old continent, she did not miss Leeha’s words and actions. Most importantly, wasn’t one of the main reasons she participated as a member of the New Continent expedition team to observe the Three Musketeers one by one? However, if Leeha fell here, one of her goals would not be achieved.

‘Tsk… damn it, damn it! Damn you, damn you bastard!’


In a sense, Leeha’s unexpected behavior hurt Chiyou the most.

This was even more so than getting pointed at by the Black Bass or getting her tavern destroyed. As evidence, Chiyou had a hard time even acting, unlike usual. She glared at Leeha with an expression of blatant discomfort. Fortunately for her, the members of the expedition team, including Leeha, were not looking at her.

“Ha Leeha-ssi… Thank you very much.”

Beneath the oracle’s mask, Rubini’s face showed signs of joy. Her hands trembled as she held Leeha’s hand.

“That- well, yes, well…”

Leeha struggled and tried to pull his hand away, but it wasn’t an easy task. However, Leeha’s heart was too kind to just say coldly, ‘I didn’t do it because of you, so don’t misunderstand.’

“Leeha-ssi…?”

“Oppa.”

It was inevitable that Shin Nara and Ram Hwajung’s faces were distorted. Blaugrunn also went near Shin Nara and complained to Leeha.

“No, that- anyway! I’m talking about it because it feels like the best move. Really!”

“Haha, are you saying that clearing the mermaid quest on your oown is the best way?”

“Yeah. That’s right.”

“… Do you know what happened to bullets in water?”

He was not firing from outside water into the water.

If it was in the sea, it meant that he had to shoot underwater and at objects in the water!

A normal handgun could only travel 2-3m, and a normal rifle could only travel about 5m.

A bullet traveling faster than the speed of sound would lose its strength when fired underwater. This was unavoidable due to the nature of bullets, which relied on rotational forces as one of the foundations of acceleration.

“Of course. Even if it is the Black Bass or Sniper Rifle, the range will be reduced to around 10m. Even if you hit it from 2m away, monsters like the fishmen won’t die.”

Kidd asked because he was worried, but even Leeha was aware of that.

“At least you can shoot the Black Bass, but those gunpowder toy guns are completely useless. Well, you would know that even if it were just an ugly head, right?”


“You’re noisy, Luger. Of course, I know. Are you afraid I said I was doing it without thinking?”

Wasn’t he uglier? And he had the conscience to say that. It was a clear fact that Luger, who had applied pomade even in the middle of the sea, was more handsome than Leeha.

“Hoo, do you have any thoughts? I didn’t know.”

Luger chuckled as he heard Leeha’s answer. He warned that neither the needlegun pistol nor hummingbird pistol could not be used. Leeha could feel the concern contained in Luger’s sarcastic tone.

“Ha Leeha.”

“Hmm… Bailephus-nim, do you have any waterproofing magic?”

“Of course. However, how are you going to get back?”

“You know.”

Blaugrunn flying above Leeha’s head grinned. What if he left Blaugrunn on one of the two ships and used the appearance skill? Wouldn’t it be possible to come up from the deep sea floor?

“Indeed. But time will be an issue. Even though you are partners, unless you are connected through the soul, you cannot escape the restriction.”

“I see. Well, there are other ways than that.”

Leeha also had to keep in mind the possibility of being delayed in clearing the quest or exceeding the skill range while hesitating on the seabed.

Of course, with Leeha’s calculation, that wouldn’t happen.

‘If it takes that long at the bottom of the sea… I’m going to die anyway.’

After talking with Bailephus for a moment and confirming his escape method, Leeha immediately turned around.

“Okay, if it’s decided, let’s go! Fernand-ssi said he put it on hold, but it would be a big deal if the quest disappeared for no reason, right?”

Leeha went out of the cabin brightly and energetically. Users who did not know the escape method Leeha had and what plan he had could not help but look at Leeha with strange expressions. He might end up becoming a victim and incur a penalty, and he didn’t even want some kind of compensation in return. Now, it was not important whether Leeha could clear the quest.

The attitude that allowed him to confidently and resolutely face the situation. Awe and respect for that confidence began to spread among the users.

“… What would you do?”

Sea Bream looked anxious as he watched the humans pour out of the cabin. A gold notification window appeared in front of the users again.


Since the discussion was already over, there was no time to worry about the reward any further.

『Cleaning the Purification Pool』

Content: Eliminate the source of the contamination inside the ‘Purification Pool’ owned by the Undine clan.

Condition of Failure: User’s Death, sea God’s Death, sea Bream’s Death

“Are you sure it’s going to be okay, Ha Leeha-ssi?”

“Yes. I will tell you exactly what I hear. Please come back, monseiur Fernand.”

Fernand nodded and pressed the refuse button. Other users did the same.

Only Leeha took a step toward Sea Bream and pressed the accept button.

“I will help you.”

Shyaaaa…!

As soon as he pressed the accept button, another notification appeared.

『You have agreed to the ‘Water Ring’ restrictions.』

A sky-colored string was created connecting the body of Leeha and Sea Bream.

The magic that went beyond a simple state was like the ‘Seal of Protection’ used by Kijung. Binding the caster and the target into one fate. Only the caster can cancel it.

『The ‘Water Ring’ Restricts your movement.』

『Caster: Sea Bream』

『You cannot move away from the caster until it is lifted.』

‘He’s an NPC so he won’t break his promise, right?’ It’s really the worst thing to think that a user would bet on something like this.’

That was why consent was needed. Leeha nodded and accepted the fate he had agreed to.

“Then let me know. Where is the center of the Dawn Sea that connects the old continent and the new continent?”

Sea Bream: To be precise, it is not known whether it connects the old continent and the new continent.

Leeha: -Huh? This is different from your promise!

Sea Bream: Isn’t that why I didn’t say it first? I have not confirmed with my own eyes whether the new continent is there, so I can’t say for sure that it is the midpoint.

Leeha: Cough, if that’s what you meant… okay. Anyway, since you are taking responsibility for your words, please tell me now. Where is the central part of the ocean?

It wasn’t difficult to guess what Leeha was doing. Therefore, all members of the expedition were quietly waiting for Leeha’s conversation to end.

Sea Bream looked directly at Leeha and gave him the quest’s advanced compensation.

Sea Bream: It’s the Dragon Palace.

Leeha: The Dragon Palace? Is it the waters of the Dragon Palace that we are going to now?

Sea Bream: Exactly. It is said that when the Sea Gog built the Dragon Palace, he built in the middle of the seas. As proof, he erected an ‘immobile island’, or buoy, at sea level in a straight line from the Dragon Palace.

Leeha: Buoy… As expected, it is of ‘God’ level, so the size is clear. A buoy the size of an island.

Sea Bream: Of course. Even though it is not connected to land, the island never moves. Just as the Sea God’s crown shines on its own, that island also shines with the Sea God’s power.

“Ah….”

“Why?”

Shin Nara asked, but Leeha didn’t even have time to answer her.

The place inside the waters of the Dragon Palace that they must proceed to from now on was the Dragon Palace! Above the Dragon Palace was the center of the sea, and there was even an island that did not move!

“Hey, this-! We, we didn’t have to accept the quest!”

“Ah, aaaaahhhhh!”

That was their plan in the first place! Drake would partially remove the typhoon and advance with the acceleration skill! Whether they took the mermaids with them or abandoned them, they would definitely see the island called ‘Buoy’!

‘No, no, I don’t think so.’

They would not have known that it was an immobile island. Additionally, there was no guarantee that they would go to its exact location. It meant that there was a greater possibility that they would not have noticed if they didn’t accept the quest. Most importantly was the reason why they were looking for the midpoint.

‘We need to build a mana relay tower there.’

But how? Once they entered the waters of the Dragon Palace, they could not stop.

They had to take the NPCs and load materials into a small boat, go to the island called ‘Buoy’, and build the mana relay tower… The Blue Marlin and the New Serpent could not be stopped.

“It looks like you got a troublesome answer.”

Leeha turned his head at the voice asking softly. It was a person with a slender build holding a cane. Another idea suddenly occurred to Leeha.

“Hyein-ssi.”

“Yes?”

“If you could see the place you need to teleport to, you can teleport there even if you have never been there, right?”

“Hmm…. I have to calculate it in advance, but nothing is impossible.”

“Mass teleportation along with NPCs?”

“It may consume a lot of mana, but… nothing is impossible.”

“With materials?”

“What are you trying to say?”

Hyein got an ominous premonition. But it was already too late. Because Hyein was already actively working in Leeha’s head.

“Okay! Everyone, gather! First of all, I will convey what I heard without skipping anything! I’ll tell you what we should do accordingly, starting with the draft.”

“Wait a minute! What is okay?! Ha Leeha-ssi!”

Leeha told the expedition team about the plan to build the mana relay tower along with the information he received from Sea Bream.

From the construction of the mana relay tower to entering the Dragon Palace, clearing the quest, and returning.

While Leeha talked, others were surprised while others were worried by the idea. Some people thought they were lucky that they were not selected, while others had sharp eyes shining.

The only thing that was certain was that all plans were uncertain, but no user voiced that anxiety out loud. Because the die had been cast.

“Kiskis, you reall are a great person. Ha Leeha-ssi, a lot of people would go crazy if you ever join our guild.”

“What makes me even more upset is that I can’t stop Leeha hyung when he says things like this.”

Biyemi and Kijung sighed.

“Right. Because he had proven it again and again… You should call it amazing….”

Hyein who was next to them, also had no choice but to agree with Kijung’s words.

(To be continued…)
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 “The personnel from Blue Marlin are to return immediately.”

Did Alexander have the same thought as Hyein? He thought differently again. Leeha’s plan was not only uncertain. It was also the ‘only’ method at this point. Even if the possibility was low, it was more in line with Alexander’s personality to break through if there was a way.

“Tomorrow morning, head in the direction the mermaids told. We will enter the waters of the Dragon Palace.”

On the 42nd night of the voyage, the Blue Marlin and New Serpent slowly turned their bows.

It was calm before the storm.

“There are still 3.5km left, but there are already thunderclouds..”

The lumps of dark clouds in the sky were quite surprising to Leeha. The storm brought wind and rain and sent thunder and lightning as if it was circulating in place with the sea.

“You shouldn’t be this surprised, hyung. Hyung is the one who needs to go into the sea.”

“Even though we are entering from a different direction than the last time, the fishmen will soon catch up.”

Kijung and Bobae, both experienced players, grinned as they watched Leeha being surprised by the gradually rising waves. It was not like they were happy, but it was to relieve some of the tension.

Fernand, drake, and Guard Captain Sea Bream decided to move in a different direction from their last escape route and enter the seas of the Dragon Palace.

“That’s right. The moment something enter the waters of the Dragon Palace, those inside the Dragon Palace will know.”

“Can’t other mermaids come out to help?”

“They will be guarding the last line of defense in the Dragon Palace’s inner city. Since they have to prepare for invasions from every direction including those from above, they probably don’t have the personnel. Worst of all, they are probably not even sure if I’m alive… I wonder if they haven’t been breached yet…”

Sea Bream trailed off. In Anderson’s case, he was accidentally found collapsed from exhaustion while running away from a fishman, however, sea Bream’s case was different.

‘He must have made a desperate escape to gather helpers to eradicate the fishmen. There’s a reason he was teary-eyed when he saw Drake.’

He must have wanted to borrow strength from the humans accompanying Drake so much. Even though he knew what information people wanted, he must have been so anxious that he had to offer it as ‘advanced compensation’.

‘If this mermaid, sea Bream, had been a little better at negotiating, we would have been in big trouble. No, if he did that, would we really have ignored his quest? Heuhue.’

Being relaxed while thinking about trivial things, Leeha looked around.

“Will Team A be okay?”


“They will be okay even if they don’t sleep. We just have to move forward unconditionally.”

“Kiskis, that’s right. Even the logout rotation has been reduced to 6 people, so we have to run at full capacity… They won’t be able to do anything even if they are not okay.”

For this operation, three teams were randomly divided, the first of which, team A, boarded two ships and the goal was to continue heading east through the central part of the waters of the Dragon Palace.

In the meantime, their mission was to prevent attacks by the fishmen and protect the ship so that they could sail to the new continent without any problem.

“Besides, the middle of the waters of the Dragon Palace is about 20 days away from the outskirts at the current speed of this ship. If we assume that the storm and the sea area are a circle and consider the 20-day radius, it means that it would take 20 days to escape, and a total of about 40 days until we finally escape the waters of the Dragon Palace… I can’t believe we have to get through that with less rest.”

It sounded like a whine. Considering the constant threat, it was naturally impossible to maintain the current logout rotation. Therefore, they had no choice but to take special measures to keep each group’s login time the same until they left the waters of the Dragon Palace while reducing rest time by half.

“Still, we have to think positively. To put it simply, doesn’t the 60-day voyage distance mean that it’s the middle of the sea? Because we know that the location of the new continent is to the east! In other words, if we leave the waters of the Dragon Palace and go east for 40 more days, we will arrive at the new continent!”

Last night, after hearing Leeha’s plan, fernand made a calculation. It was the only news that could provide strength to the members of the new continent expedition.

Approximately 40 days from the old continent to the waters of the Dragon Palace. And from the outskirts to the center approximately 20 days at the current ship speed. In other words, the answer was that the middle of the Dawn Sea was 60 days away from the old continent.

And what did it mean if the distance from the old continent to the center was 60 days?

If the Sea God really created the Dragon Palace in the ‘middle’, there would definitely be a ‘new continent’ 60 days from there!

‘It was probably the Buoy that Fernand-ssi saw during the first expedition to the new continent.’

Fernand’s experience of seeing seagulls flying and the land shimmering in the distance naturally became an act of confirmation of the ‘Buoy’.

“Are you going to comfort Team A now Ha Leeha-ssi?”

Haa..

“T-that’s right, but you know it can’t be helped, right? Because in Team B, there is no one else who could do it except Hyein-ssi! I heard that Bailephus-nim decided to provide some help with mana and space.”

“Still… I will resent you for a long time.”

Hyein’s gloomy eyes looked at Leeha. Team B’s leader was Hyein! When passing through the central part of the waters of the Dragon Palace with NPC workers and materials to build a mana relay tower, their goal was to mass teleport all of them to the ‘Buoy’!

‘According to the practice conducted in the old continent, the time it takes to build one mana relay tower was approximately 4 days.’

If Burke and Drake used their skills and ran for 4 days on the sea without any obstacles, the distance would be enormous.


“You can come back safely, right?”

“Ha Leeha-ssi, you sound like you will be able to return safely. If I link up with Bailephus… we can come back exactly 100 hours away.”

This meant that even with the help of Bailephus, the limit for Hyein to be able to use mass teleport again and return with the NPCs was exactly 100 hours.

The time required to build the relay tower was 4 days or 96 hours, so in the end, there were only 4 hours to spare.

However, like Hyein’s scolding, now was not the time to worry about anyone.

“We’re entering soon. Anderson! You prepare as well.”

“Yes, guard captain-nim!”

“Alright. We need to prepare as well. Please come this way.”

This was because the last team, team C, Leeha, and the mermaids, were in a position to jump into the sea after entering the waters of the Dragon Palace.

“About 1 nautical mile to the waters of the Dragon Palace! It’s coming soon! Searchlight is ready!”

“All Kraven users, stay alert! After the NPCs go to build the mana relay tower, we have to run even harder!”

The shouts of the main mast’s watch tower and the shouts of Hook created a commotion on the ship.

“Sea Bream-nim, please move with me for a moment.”

“Alright.”

Leeha, who was bound by the Water Ring, moved with Sea Bream, and called Bailephus. Bailephus, who had been preparing breathing magic in advance, widened his eyes for a moment when he heard Leeha’s words.

“You only need waterproof magic?”

“Yes. I don’t need to breathe. Please waterproof all the items in my bag and Black Bass.”

Leeha’s honest feelings were that he wanted to entrust it to someone, but Black Bass was impossible to trade.

He had no choice but to carry it on his back.

“If you don’t need breathing magic, I can put on as much waterproofing as you want. I’ll cast it right away.”


This was the first thing Leeha believed in when he decided to do this quest. Breathing magic lasted only a few hours at most. However, what about him?

『Achievement: Recognized by the Son of the Sea God(A)』

Reward: 17 Stat Points, and the ability to be able to breathe underwater.

It allowed him to breathe underwater. Although he had never tested it before, Leeha believed that the system would be no different from the one on the ground.

“We are about to enter the waters of the Dragon Palace! Captain Drake-nim!”

“Alright.”

Drake’s clothes were different from before. Rather, it was a familiar sight to the users. The coat that Leeha had been wearing all along fluttered even more beautifully with its original owner.

Sometime later, blue mana particles gathered into Drake’s body.

『Perfect Storm』.”

Paaaaa—!

“Waaaaaah…”

“Amazing. It really disappeared as if erased by an eraser.”

“The scope is not that wide. Well, there’s no need to make it wider, right? Only two ships need to pass…”

A blue sky appeared above the sea full of dark clouds. The sea was so completely different from the turbulent sea around it that it felt awkward to those looking at it. However, it was also the waters of the Dragon Palace. Even in the blue sea, fishmen could swim as much as they wanted.

“Entering the waters of the Dragon Palace!”

Deeeeeng….!

With a heavy ring, the captains of the Blue Marlin and New Serpent simultaneously used acceleration skills. Leeha was even a little excited to see a sight that did not exist in the real world. However, the excitement and joy of traveling did not last even for a day. Just 9 hours after entering the waters of the Dragon Palace, Leeha and the users discovered the sea surface splashing with water.

“A swarm of fishmen appeared! Everyone, prepare for battle—–!”

“Sea Bream-nim, anderson-ssi!”

“Hmm.”

“Yes, I’m ready.”

The two mermaids and Leeha approached the stern of the New Serpent.

Huu, huu take a few deep breaths. Leeha shouted to the users prepared for battle.

“Then, please take care of Team A and Team B!”

“Eong-ah! See you again later!”

“Stop talking nonsense and take care of yourself! Let’s go!”

The plan was perfect. If it weren’t for the crying that was heard from behind the moment Sea Bream jumped.

『Kyuu! Kyuuuu!』

Flap, flap, a creature rushed to Leeha at high speed with a flapping sound!

“Huh? Ohhh!?”

If Blaugrunn-ssi comes with me, I won’t-”

Leeha hurriedly turned around and tried to stop Blaugrunn, but Sea Bream had already jumped into the sea. The distance of the 『Water Ring』 was 20m.

Deeeeeng—!

Like the end of a stretched rubber band, Leeha got tugged! And was dragged into the sea without sound. With the small sound of splashing, the struggle of the three teams of new continent expedition members began.

“Eup, euuuuup!?”

Adapting to the sea was difficult enough, but Blaugrunn also followed along!

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

Even though Leeha was fumbling, blaugrun was fine. Even after entering the water together, the dragon’s eyes were bright.

“It is indeed a dragon. I heard that races that do not breathe air are not affected even in water-”

“Eup, wooum?”

Sea Bream nodded as if he had seen something rare.

“Hehe, that’s right. Ha Leeha-nim, are you ready?”

Even the nearby Anderson. They swam quickly and moved quickly. They were literally like fish in water, but Leeha needed some time to adapt.

“Euuup, haaa… Heeuuup, haaaa….”

His breathing became easier. Just like on land.

‘But I can’t speak! Damn it, what kind of achievement is this?’

He could literally only breathe. Leeha was once again surprised by the harshness of Middle Earth and quickly found another way. Because whispering was possible in Middle Earth.

Leeha: Let’s go!

Leeha slowly turned his head around and looked at the underside of the ship moving away.

An alarm sounded only when a new object entered the waters of the Dragon Palace. In other words, if they got out of the ship after getting in and before they got caught by the fishmen, the risk of being caught decreased.

In a way, team A was also bait for Teams B and C.

Sea Bream: Hold on tight.

Anderson: I will take care of dragon-nim!

Leeha held on to Sea Bream, and Anderson hugged Blaugrunn. It was Middle Earth, where people were only allowed to breathe underwater and unable to speak, so it was absurd to hope that Leeha’s swimming skills would improve.

Fortunately, they had talked about it in advance. The two mermaids quickly swam away, waving their tails. Unlike the stormy sea surface, the undersea was extremely calm. The further down, the quieter the sea, and gave Leeha an unfamiliar feeling.

‘It’s a little painful that Blaugrunn-ssi followed after me, but it can’t be helped. It’s a blessing in disguise.’

Even while Leeha was admiring the surroundings, he couldn’t stop worrying about how to get back. Looking at another method that he mentioned to Baileiphus in passing.

‘This should be as powerful as the appearance skill… It was possible to break through the space barrier in the national exhibition, but it will be possible this time as well?’

Leeha activated his skill.

Leeha: Kidd! Luger! Turn on chain teleport! I’m going on that ride later!

Kidd: What are you talking about, I’m busy—

Luger: Bullshit!

The sailing distance was about 43 days, and they were on the 45th day of their voyage, Leeha smiled as he listened to Kidd and Luger’s whispers.

Leeha: kilkil, thank you for your hard work!

Kidd and Luger could not reply and could only listen to Leeha’s teasing. However, it was still unknown who would suffer more.

(To be continued…)
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 “Brrrrrrgh…”

Bubbles bubbled up when Leeha, who was on Sea Bream’s back, opened his mouth to speak.

“What?”

『Kyukyu?』

Anderson and Blaugrunn, held in Anderson’s hand, saw the air bubble. Whispering wasn’t difficult, but it was more uncomfortable than speaking directly.

Leeha: I’m so frustrated I can’t even talk! Ah, it’s nothing special, I was just wondering if you are prepared for the fishmen!

“Of course. It might be different on the surface, but here our detection capabilities are not any less.”

“Hehe, we can sense them with ultrasound coming from here.”

While listening to Sea Bream, anderson pointed to his forehead. Even though he was a muscular mermaid, anderson looked pretty and had a small scale on his forehead.

‘Given their comments, can I assume the border situation is under control? The real issue, however, is speed. Since it is underwater and they are swimming, they can definitely move faster than a ship. Also, taking into account that the mermaids need breaks, can I assume that we will eventually arrive at the central waters of the Dragon Palace around the same time? If everything proceeds as expected, we should be there in about 19 days and 12 hours.’

In the central waters of the Dragon Palace, just at sea level, lay an immobile island known as ‘Buoy’. Below the surface, nestled on the sea bed, was the ‘Dragon Palace’. The areas designated for the New Continent expedition team to carry out their operations were quite similar. However, Leeha found his thoughts tangled in complexity.

‘The starting point of the operation will be slightly different.’

Team A had several users. They could go through the central part of the waters of the Dragon Palace and log out once they exited the waters of the Dragon Palace.

Team B consisted of only Hyein, but the operation started near Buoy Island. In other words, until then, he had to focus on defending against the fishmen with the users of Team A, then log out at an appropriate time, log in after a break, and complete his duties.

But what about Team C? Leeha was literally alone, not even a team. Therefore, it meant that there was no one to switch with him for the logout rotation and no one to take over his mission, even if only a short period of time. Moreover, unlike Hyein’s team, Leeha had already started his operation.

‘Furthermore, maybe it is because he’s the sea god, undine clan, or whatever, but the waters of the Dragon Palace is also incredibly large.’

The entire diameter of the waters of Dragon Palace was about 40 days away at the sailing speed of the ship, and from the outskirts of the waters of the Dragon Palace to the center alone, it was only 20 days. How many days did Leeha, who started his operation after entering from the outskirts, have to carry out the operation? Maintaining connectivity throughout that period was close to impossible. Therefore, what was confirmed in advance was the effect of 『Water Ring』. Leeha thought about it the most.

‘How will the 20m distance limit be applied while logging out?’

It was a blessing in disguise.

‘Even if I log out, I will be near Sea Bream.’


If one thought about it simply, it was a movement-restricting skill, but after creating an application method, it became possible to use it as an excellent movement skill.

‘No, I have to stay connected as long as possible. As much as possible!’

It was not the time to stop and rest. It was the most relaxed time when the fishmen flocked toward the vessels serving as bait.

‘The mermaids also increased their speed without resting and agreed to rest for a day when I logged out. Tsk, me too, but in the case of the mermaids, it’s like moving for 10 days and resting for 1. If they were human NPCs, they would have just fainted and stretched out.’

Mermaids were not in a position to choose between hot and cold food. It was not possible to confirm whether they had higher physical strength than human NPCs or whether they could survive without sleep. However, sea Bream and Anderson also agreed to move for 10 days and sleep for 1 day, and move again for 10 days and rest for 1. Of course, there would be time to stop and rest along the way, but it was a schedule no different from a hellish march.

Leeha, in terms of real-time, it was the same as 48 hours of access- 5 hours of sleep, and 48 hours of access- 5 hours of sleep, so the mermaids did not mind. It was a mission that required extreme concentration while surviving only on a short nap.

An ordinary person with decent physical strength would not be able to withstand it.

That’s why Shin Nara tried to stop Leeha when he said he would be alone in Team C, but she couldn’t stop him either.

‘A stroke of luck amidst this misfortune is that I’ve already endured worse! The KTKC experience was hellish – having to lie in one spot for 60 hours, unable to move or even use the bathroom. It was a challenge to even discern whether my eyes were open or closed. Compared to that ordeal, my current situation feels almost pleasant. Truly, that experience was complete nonsense!’

Although he was reassuring himself, Leeha’s expression was not bright. Still, he knew very well the things that he had to grit himself.

‘Anyway, 22 days from now, Middle Earth time, we will be right near the Dragon Palace. If we rest there for a while and go to the Dragon Palace, it will be exactly 23 days. I have to finish it in one day.’

Leeha calculated the operational time in which he could move. Considering the speed of the ship, spatial movement using the link between Hyein and Bailephus was also a great reference to the fact that it could only travel a distance of 100 hours.

‘The space lock created by the ancient dragon surpasses the strength of the wide-area barrier deployed during the national war. Even Hyein, who managed to break through it, is still 100 hours away. I’m uncertain about the potency of the Three Musketeers’ chain teleport, and whether it’s strong enough to surpass that barrier. Given these circumstances, I should set my time limit even earlier.’

In other words, since Hyein’s free time was limited to 4 hours on the 24th, it meant that those who entered after the 23rd had reached the limit before the 24th day were up.

‘According to calculations, the total operation time is about a day and a few hours, but I should not move with that in mind. I heard stories about the Dragon Palace and the Purification Pool, but… Theory and practice are different. If I move a little more tightly and with the determination to finish within 20 hours, I will be just in the nick of time.’

Leeha’s strategy was to avoid the fishmen as much as possible and only fix the Purification Pool.

‘If the polluted sea god returns to its original state, he will lead the mermaids and take charge of the fishmen, right?’

It was Anderson and Sea Bream’s guess, and Leeha and Bailephus also thought it was highly likely. It is said that he had not come forward and punished the fishmen because he treated them as members of the same species.

If they took that as a starting point, the sea god considered co-existence with them, and Leeha speculated that this happened due to the contamination of the septic tank while the sea god wasn’t looking.

In other words, it should be seen that they took action thinking that removing the source of pollution would eliminate the ferocity of the fishmen, but failed, leading to the current situation.


Of course, if the source of pollution was removed, it was highly likely that the seas would return to their original state.

If it was like that? At that time, the fishmen would leave them alone.

‘I can do it. If we just remove the source of pollution in the septic tank, the sea god will definitely return. That’s probably why the death of the sea god was listed as a failure condition.’

Hints from quests. There was nothing more difficult for Leeha, who knew what Middle Earth aimed for.

‘If all operations go as planned, team C, I, will join Team A, less than 10 hours after Team B joins Team A. In addition, the sea god and mermaids will deal with the fishmen that follow, so normal logout rotation can be started immediately. If that’s the case? By the time we leave the waters of the Dragon Palace, everyone will have recovered their stamina.’

Of course, there were variables even during this time.

All of these plans were made based on the standard that the Blue Marlin and New Serpent move at a constant speed without slowing down or resting. If something happened in the middle, everything would inevitably go wrong.

‘I have to believe them. Unless I can cover every place by myself, I have to trust my ‘comrades’.’

Leeha imagined the state of the sea surface for a moment and opened his mouth.

“Pugrrrrrrrk-!”

Faster, faster!

The mermaids understood Leeha’s meaning without having to whisper. Bubbles rose to the surface drop by drop. The schedule and operational plan are shared by teams A, b, and C. All teams would work hard to meet their respective deadlines.

Not only Leeha but also teams A and B were in a situation where they couldn’t find any leeway.

“Port cannon, fire as soon as you are ready! You don’t have to guess! Check it first! Slow them down!”

Baaaang, baaang, baaang—!

Inside the cabin, the sound of culverine firing constantly rang. Fishmen were creatures with human arms and legs sprouting from the body of a fish.

There were some that swam like dolphins at the sea surface and came toward the ship, but there were also quite a few that swam from the bottom of the sea. However, they were invisible to the users at the deck. It could not even be caught by Oracle Rubini or Dancer Chiyou’s skills. How would they deal with them?

It was difficult to think of a way. Except to shoot indiscriminately.

“Change the type of bullet! Insert the prepared fishing net! Insert the chain shells into the cannon chambers that are not equipped with fishing net shells!”

“Starboard gun- fire!”


Baaang, baaaang—!

Two cannonballs flew from the muzzle of the huge culverine cannon and began to spread. Connected between the cannonballs were thin, long nets. Normally, the chain was aimed at destroying sails or masts, but as they entered the waters of the Dragon Palace, Kraven users developed better cannonballs to deal with the fishmen. The new continent expedition team were high-level users who created countermeasures based on their experience of fighting just once!

A huge water fountain soared up with the whistling sound of a flying cannonball.

“Hamu-!”

“Kyukyuhak, hat! It works!”

“Make more! What is this guy with his hands idle! Keep making fish nets!”

The interior of the cabin, which was not visible from the outside, was also busy.

Not to mention the deck. Drake had partially removed the storm in the sky, and the Blue Marlin and New Serpent’s acceleration skills and wave-ignoring skills were showing off their effectiveness to the fullest, but the fishmen’s offensive was strong.

“Kiskis, you said you fought with these guys? 『Poison Stink』.”

Biyemi shook his head and sprayed water mist outside the deck. The small particles, which seemed no different from spray from the sea, spread widely and created a barrier.

“Hakyu- uhh?”

“Eup, hakit! Hakit!”

As many as five fishmen were approaching that place. However, those who were swimming with their gills spread hastily changed direction.

“Uwa, what skill is that?”

“Kiskis, I tried it just in case, and it worked. It’s a poison that utilizes a bad smell. Rather than being poison, it is used to chase away birds or insect-type monsters…”

Biyemi laughed happily. Poison did not simply reduce HP. The venom mage, who knew Middle Earth’s system, drove the fish away in a way that other users could not even imagine.

“If you overdo it, you will lose experience….”

It was something worth using… While everyone was busy dealing with the fishmen, Lee Jiwon climbed onto the mast, moved around calmly, and looked around.

“Lee Jiwon-ssi! What are you doing? Hunt quickly- 『Spread arrow』!”

Bobae showered arrows and shouted at Lee Jiwon, but the second on the ranking, the most needed user at the moment, just sat there and ignored her.

“Waaak! Bobae-ssi, look over ther!”

“Ah, right, heavy shot!”

Huuuu, pak!

(To be continued…)
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 An arrow quickly fired in the direction Kijung pointed and struck the fishman between the eyes.

Although the distance was over 200m, it was no problem for Bobae. There was not a single user on this ship who turned on the combat assistance system.

“Okay! I’m ready! I will take charge of the stern of the New Serpent, so don’t touch it!『Lightning Rod』!”

“What?”

Ruuuuuumble—— “What is that, lightning?”

“Oh, oh, captain Drake! Lightning struck our mast, right? Our ship is not outside of the storm’s radius.”

Lightning struck Lee Jiwon’s raised sword.

 And it wasn’t just one shot.

Bzzt, bzzzt, bzzzt!

Hook, who was near Drake, was worried that there might be a problem with the ship’s mast, but Drake just glanced at Lee Jiwon and ignored him.

“It’s okay. That guy is a lightning rod.”

“Lightning rod?”

That was the name of Lee Jiwon’s skill. Lightning rod. Creating lightning with a skill required a huge amount of mana and casting time. However, where would they go? Although the storm overhead had disappeared, everything around was in the middle of a storm filled with dark clouds. There was a lot of energy related to lightning! And now, Lee Jiwon raised his black sword and gathered all the lightning around him.

“Uwa-hahahaha-hahaha-! Are you nervous?! Do you want to get smashed?!”

“That crazy bastard…”

Luger on the ship across them was taken aback. The lightning continued to strike and constantly flickered in the surroundings. 『Burke.』

『I know! I’m glad a crazy guy like him isn’t on our ship.』

The two captains conversed across the sea as they watched the energy building up in Lee Jiwon’s sword. What would happen in the future and what they should do? The worn-out captains already knew.

“Get ready.”

“W-what-”


“Kyakyakyakya! It’s so bad I can’t control it!『Re-”

Baaaaang!

The two ships accelerated once more!

“-lease』!”

Lee Jiwon pointed his sword toward the stern of the ship and cast a skill.

『What an interesting guy. Don’t you think it was a good idea to keep them alive at that time, Alexander?』

Bailephus, who was blowing his breath toward the fishmen in the sky above the Blue Marlin, looked at Lee Jiwon with an interested expression. The gold dragon thought about the past when he participated in the human national war and fought against Lee Jiwon.

At that time, Alexander tried to kill Lee Jiwon, but Bailephus stopped him. The reason was that at least one more person’s power was needed to prevent Tiamat’s resurrection, so he should be kept alive first, and although Alexander was skeptical, he eventually agreed.

“Such an arrogant bastard has a similar will to us… I didn’t know he would be so active here.”

Alexander also chuckled as he remembered that time. However, was it because he spared Lee Jiwon’s life at that time that Lee Jiwon was showing off such energy now? Alexander was skeptical about that.

“But, the reason he’s here wasn’t just because we spared his life.”

『Hmm.』

“Human grudges are deep. It is especially difficult for people like Lee Jiwon and Luger to agree with us. Because they are still targeting us.”

Even after Alexander spared Lee Jiwon, Lee Jiwon repeatedly looked for opportunities to kill Alexander and Baileiphus.

Unlike Baileiphus, a gold dragon, Alexander was human, so he could tell. There were people in the world who could not be subdued by force. Representative users with such tendencies were Luger and Lee Jiwon. These are users who have no intention of repaying a favor because they were spared or were looked after. Rather, they are closer to people who have the tendency to spring out like a spring the more you try to make them give in.

『Then is it because of the compensation?』

“It is similar… but different.”

There was only one reason why they were quietly cooperating here and now.

Was it because they received the quest? If that was the right answer, a more fundamental answer was needed than that. It was because there was someone who convinced them to accept the quest.

The existence of another user who not only persuaded them but actually dragged them by the collar. Alexander thought that was the biggest factor that allowed them to be here.


Bailephus found the answer in Alexander’s ambiguous words. Even who it was.

『… I guess so. It is because there is a connection.』

“That’s right. Because there is someone who pushes themselves into a corner for the sake of goodness and justice.”

『If it weren’t for Ha Leeha, it wouldn’t have been easy.』

“Hmm. He is fully qualified to be an assistant executor of justice.”

『Haha.』

Would that mean that Alexander would be the executor of justice and Leeha would be his assistant? Baileiphus laughed as he listened to Alexander. At that time, the thirty-seventh lightning struck Lee Jiwon’s sword, and it was right after the two captains used their acceleration skills. It meant that it was almost at the same time that Lee Jiwon opened his mouth again.

“Kyakyakyakyak! It’s to the point where I couldn’t control it! 『Release』!”

In the moment between using the acceleration skill and casting the release skill, three more thunderbolts fell on Lee Jiwon’s sword. When Lee Jiwon’s black sword, which contained as many as 40 strikes of lightning energy, pointed to the stern of the New Serpent, all the users closed their eyes.

“Destroy everything——–!”

“Wow!”

“It’s so bright!”

“I wish I had Crowley’s sunglasses!”

Even when their eyes were closed, the bright light that penetrated their pupils remained for a long time. It was a very different feeling from simply having lightning strike in front of their eyes.

They didn’t know if it was because of the sound of thunder, but they kept hearing small sounds like crackling, and cries of mice. In fact, it only lasted for 5 seconds. However, considering the speed of lightning, that was ‘light’, there was so much energy emitted within that 5 seconds. The lightning that was gathered together by the skill and had energy released again was enough to burn the air, evaporate the seawater, and fry all the fishmen.

“… Electric grill…”

“Kiskis, I think my throat would burn if I eat that.”

Sea water evaporated by the tremendous energy shimmered behind the New Serpent like fog. The number of floating fishmen corpses was innumerable.

“Let’s go, Bailephus, we are at the front.”

『I am already prepared. Huuuuu』.


Hwaaaaak!

At the point when the front and rear were completely cleared, it was close to impossible for the fishmen to come up to the side. It was because the two ships traveled side by side. As all users of the Blue Marlin poured out their skills on the left and all users of the New Serpent poured out all their skills on the right, the fishmen’s movements began to gradually slow down.

“Huu, they’re not coming! They can’t come any closer!”

“Kak! Really?! Is it over now?”

“T-that, I don’t know about that, but I don’t think they can get close, at least for now. Perhaps they are scared after experiencing Lee Jiwon-ssi’s lightning rod release combo and Alexander-ssi’s breath…”

Fernand took out his telescope, looked at the fishmen, and tilted his head. He didn’t know the exact reason, but it was fortunate that they were able to get some time to rest.

“Waaaa!! Why aren’t they coming? I want to show them too! I still have a lot of skills that are just as good as Lee Jiwon’s!”

“I will deal with you, Pyro!”

“Oh, Luger! Great! Shall we give it a try?”

The flames bloomed at the hands of the descendant of the fire mage hero Pyro. Luger did not watch and stood still. If there was one thing that was disappointing to Luger, it was that there were other people who ‘watched and stood still.’

“Oh, oh! If you have the energy, come and help me fix something! That massive lightning damaged the back of our ship!”

“Bring the hammer! Wood! Take whatever scraps of wood we have left!”

As soon as the battle was over, crackling sounds began to be heard everywhere. Even in that atmosphere, Pyro and Luger were able to understand it enough that they did not fight each other. No, there was a more practical reason.

“If you two fought now, you would have had a chance to fight everyone, Luger.”

In this atmosphere, if they had decided to fight 1:1, the other users would have rushed in and overwhelmed the two.

“You’re noisy, Kidd.”

Kidd, who had already crossed from the Blue Marlin, stood next to Luger and smiled. Luger standing next to him stood still. And then, without any hesitation, opened the Three Musketeers’ window and checked the location of the musketeer that wasn’t with them.

『Dawn Sea – Waters of the Dragon Palace – Water Depth 47m』

“Hmmm..”

“At 40m depth… He could move around without an air tank. Damn bastard.”

“He said he has an achievement.”

“That’s why I call him a damn bastard. Keeping it to himself…”

Kidd glanced at the grumbling Luger and couldn’t help but smile.

This was because he knew very well what caused the current dissatisfaction.

“Are you thinking that if you had the achievement, you could have gone with him?”

Kidd realized that Luger’s true intention was to be of help to Leeha.

“W-what kind of bullshit are you talking about, he will eat up all the stats alone and explode and then die. Hmph.”

Luger overreacted and left, but that actually gave Kidd confidence even more.

Because he felt the same.

‘It’s a shame.’

After the first day of Lee Jiwon’s rampage after entering the waters of the Dragon Palace, it took more than a week for the fishmen to appear again.

Meanwhile, Leeha, sea Bream, and Anderson steadily gained speed.

“Prrrrrrk, prrrk!”

“There is no need to rest. We want to get to the Dragon Palace as soon as possible.”

“Prrrk, prrrk….”

Even though they were mermaids, they still had to rest. Furthermore, even a mermaid had no choice but to expend a lot of stamina to swim while carrying Leeha.

“I’m sorry, but I can’t understand you right now! Even if I push myself, it’s okay because we have a set schedule anyway, right?”

“Kohok, kohok.”

“… Is it? I see. In that case, let’s rest for a while near the coral reef over there”,

Sea Bream tried to pretend not to understand what Leeha said, but Anderson made it impossible to do so. Did getting desperate work? Or maybe Anderson himself was just too tired.

‘We have to move fast but we also need to manage stamina.’

In any case, Leeha’s meaning was the same as Anderson’s interpretation. Like Sea Bream, Leeha also wanted to move quickly, but now was not the time. In some ways, the most difficult thing about ‘marching’ was the distribution of stamina. If they did not rest at the appropriate time, they might collapse at once from the accumulated fatigue.

‘The first march lasts ten days. If you think of it as a 10-day sleepless march… it wouldn’t be surprising if I died in real life.’

Because they were mermaids, a race with stamina superior to that of humans, it was at least possible, but on the 7th day after entering the waters of the Dragon Palace, the decline in stamina of Sea Bream and Anderson became noticeable.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘The world… is turning. But it won’t be easy on the other side either.’

What was the reason why Leeha, sea Bream, and Anderson were safe? It was because the fishmen were not on guard against them. Their entire mind was preoccupied with the ship moving ceaselessly across the surface of the sea, and you wouldn’t be able to pay attention to the four or so creatures wandering around the bottom of the sea.

“Grrrrrrg?”

『Kyu, kyu!』

Blaugrunn nodded when asked if he was okay. Leeha opened the waterproof bag and took out some simple food.

Leeha: Take some of these. You have to move for a while so at least replenish some stamina.

“Thank you.”

“Thanks for the food!”

『Kyu,kyu,kyun!』

Sea Bream was also hungry, so he ate the food that Leeha gave him. It’s like eating dried jerky in the ocean… Leeha once again realized the greatness of the dragon’s waterproof magic and the greatness of his own accomplishments.

‘This is why I hate realistic games. Even if I have underwater breathing skill, if it weren’t for this achievement, it would be impossible to clear the quest! No, is this skill available as an option?’

When crossing a fairly wide river or passing between islands, users said they used underwater breathing skill just in case. However, that was only when near the sea. How about deep in the waters? It was dangerous for humans to dive more than 30 meters bare-handed.

‘It’s the same with pressure and sight. Once the sunlight no longer comes in, my eyes become completely useless.’ This was a challenge that Leeha had not even thought about. It was said that the Dragon Palace was located at the bottom of the sea. What if the bottom was 5,000m below the surface? What if it was somewhere like the Mariana Trench in the Pacific Ocean?

‘The average water depth of the Mariana Trench is 7 to 8,000m- so much so that even Mount Everest could fit into its valley.’

It was not a place where humans could survive. Therefore, the achievement obtained in Middle Earth was nothing short of a privilege.

『Humans who are capable of breathing underwater can react like marine life no matter how deep the water.』

“Gurrrrgle, gurrrgle!”

『Kyuk?』

‘But why didn’t they let me talk?’ They can react like marine creatures, so they can breathe underwater, see a wide view of the sea, and withstand water pressure well – but they couldn’t speak because they don’t have vocal cords!’

Leeha tried to think about it, but there was no way Middle Earth management would respond.


Leeha: How far do we have to go to Dragon Palace?

“At this speed… We will arrive in 13 days, no, maybe even 12 days.”

Leeha: Great. You may be tired, but please try your best for the next three days. After that, get a good rest and then we will move for another 10 days.

“Let’s do that. Did you rest well, anderson?”

“Haa, yes sir!”

Anderson straightened his posture, waving his tail fin.

Sea Bream looked at his figure with pride.

“If we successfully complete this mission, I will consider having you join the Sea God guard.”

“Waa?! R-really? Are you really?”

“You’re a bit small, but your stamina to withstand this much forced march and agility to shake off the fishmen is enough.”

When Sea Bream nodded, anderson did two back tumbles in an instant. The face of the young mermaid, who had been wearing a stricken expression just moments ago, changed.

“Oh! Ohhh yeah! Great! Then, I will be able to use the materialization of spirit powers like other Sea God guards-”

“It’s still a long way. Let’s focus on the mission first.”

“- hehehe! I understand, captain Sea Bream!”

Leeha looked at the scene happily. There was nothing that gave strength in times of darkness as much as having hope.

‘And what he just said…’

And when the thought of maybe someday, passed through Leeha’s mind, sea Bream hugged him again.

“Let’s leave.”

『Kyuu! Kyukyu!』

Blaugrunn flew to Anderson’s chest as if it were his designated seat and hugged him. In a now all-too-familiar formation, the four of them sped up again on the seafloor.


“C-captain. In front-”

“Hmm. We need to hide for a while.”

“Grrrrrg?”

Anyway, Leeha had a hard time holding his own in the water, so he had no choice but to follow guidance.

‘Are marine life like sea cucumbers or sea squirts? At least it will make our movements more flexible. There are a lot of fish, even if they aren’t at the level of dolphins or tuna!’

Without knowing Leeha’s grumbling thoughts, anderson and Sea Bream hid among the coral reefs where they had just been resting.

Leeha: What is happening? What?

As soon as they hid, Leeha started assessing the situation. They had never looked so serious before. It was natural to avoid something dangerous, but was that what really thought?

“Shh. The sea creatures are moving as a group.”

“The distance is far, so they wouldn’t be able to hear this much noise, but if we swim carelessly, the waves would be transmitted.”

Leeha: Sea creatures? Are there cases where sea creatures move in groups? Ah! Is it marine lizards?

“They are not such low-quality sea creatures.”

Sea Bream’s eyes wavered. Anderson also looked anxious and couldn’t speak properly.

Leeha: Then what is it?

“I-If they are what I think they are… It is a group of kraken… The smallest of them is at least 30m long- there are about 13 to 14 of them?”

“There are also black serpents and white serpents. Why are those guys pulling the sea god’s two-headed chariot here…?”

“I guess… It seems the fishmen are driving the sea creatures.”

“Serpents are not creatures that can be driven around. Are they controlling the serpents…? Is there a fishman capable of mind control? No, that can’t be- damn it, I can’t judge from here.”

“No way. It’s not controlling, right? If it isn’t the sea god, they don’t listen to anything.”

Anderon shook his head violently and looked at Sea Bream. However, it was not a statement with confidence. Rather, it was just a sincere wish that ‘I wish it weren’t like that.’


“You can’t jump to conclusion, anderson. A guard must always assume and prepare for every situation.”

Leeha was also able to find out that the movements of the fishmen also captured ‘ultrasonic waves’. He also knew that the kraken, a giant squid, and the serpent, were also the sea serpent that Drake used as his symbol. Its grandeur alone was enough to scare mermaids.

‘They could not be controlled by anyone other than the sea god… it is said that they could not be controlled whether it’s mind control or trickery. no, no way-‘

Why did those monsters suddenly move, and why did they move in groups?

Just looking at the mermaid’s reactions, it was clear that cases like this were rare or non-existent. If that’s the case? There was only one reason Leeha could think of.

Leeha: What direction? Are they going to where the ships are? Where are they going now? Where are the fishmen headed, creating a situation that even the mermaids are flustered by? Within the waters of the Dragon Palace, where would the fishmen lead such monsters?!

“I don’t know that. Since the waves of the ship could not be detected here… But they may be going that way-”

“Gurrrrgle- Brrrrrk!”

He should have said that first! Leeha spat out a bunch of air bubbles and quickly whispered.

Leeha: Kidd! Luger! Leeha: Nara-ssi! Kijung-ah! Spread out! The fishmen are dragging sea creatures toward the ship! I don’t know how far we are from the ship, but they will arrive soon! The type of monsters are-

Leeha whispered to the users who seemed to be the most prepared among those currently online. And once again, he was impressed by the preparedness of the users belonging to the new continent expedition team.

It was because many of the users who received the whisper replied to Leeha before he could finish his whisper.

Kidd: The total number of kraken, sea serpents, and fishmen is at least a hundred. Is that right?

Luger: Are you communicating from inside the squid’s stomach? It’s too late.

Nara: That’s crazy, really… how do we stop that? Please ask the mermaid around you, Leeha-ssi.

Kijung: Eong-ah, would you like to switch missions with me?

‘Indeed… I guess I could say that.’

Leeha gently bit his lower lip. The monster was not visible to Leeha.

However, they would definitely be stronger than normal. At least, he could feel that it would be one level higher than the crisis they have experienced so far.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Can’t we go and see?”

“Gurrgle?”

“Yes! If Ha Leeha-nim was not present, anderson would not continue to speak.”

Anderson was an NPC. Of course, he continued to stay at the ship without logging out after being rescued.

So he knew.

There was a huge difference beyond simply the presence and absence of Leeha, or the presence and absence of a sniper.

Leeha was shaken as he listened to Anderson’s words.

‘Kijung said it as if it was a joke, but it is clearly sincere. His voice was shaking.’

Wasn’t tanks the ones who were used to dealing with monsters the most? Now that they had confirmed the actual number of the kraken and the serpents, it was inevitable that the users would fight fear more than anyone else.

“I want to go to the Dragon Palace as soon as possible but… if you want to go back, I will help you. There guys are not normal. Even if you, I, and Anderson help the other humans, victory or defeat is not guaranteed-”

“Grrrg…. hmm.”

Even Sea Bream advised to turn back, but Leeha shook his head.

Leeha: No. We will move forward.

“Are you sure?”

Leeha: Yes. I don’t know if we could come out of this voyage or if we could even get to the new continent. If we cannot overcome a crisis of this magnitude, it means that it is not time yet to challenge the new continent.

It may be because it is still too early, like when Fernand failed the first expedition.

What if Middle Earth sent these monsters to wreak havoc? Even if Leeha participated in the battle, the outcome would not change.

‘However… If it’s literally like an accident event. Our members will definitely overcome it.’

Leeha had faith.

“T-then, are we really not going to go back and just keep going to the Dragon Palace?”

Leeha: That’s right! To put it bluntly, if they are so weak that they could get wiped if I don’t go, then I guess the voyage would not be possible anymore. Don’t it? Let’s go quickly!

“Hmmm…”

“Okay. Thank you once again for your determination, which is as strong as that of our clan. Anderson, are you ready?”

“Yes. Captain-nim.”

After confirming that they were far away enough, sea Bream and Anderson prepared to depart again.

Leeha trusted his colleagues. However, it would be good to think about it at least once.

Why did the NPCs recommend going back? It was because the difficulty of hunting krakens and sea serpents was beyond Leeha’s imagination.

By the time they started moving again, the sea surface was already in chaos.

The reason they knew before Leeha was simple. It was because although the fishmen were not caught in Rubini’s map, the sea monsters did.

There were no users who could remain calm while looking at the objects shown on Rubini’s map implemented with 3D scanner technology.

“Lee Jiwon, can you use the lightning rod again?”

“It is impossible because Captain Coat Tail removed too many storms!”

During the voyage, drake continuously removed storms, and both ships passed the points where the storm’s eradication area was the largest.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 416

				
 “Captain Drake says that he can’t use his skills right now! It’s in cooldown!”

After Lee Jiwon’s shout, another user finished checking/ They could not create another storm.

“Hmm.”

Alexander looked around. What if he couldn’t use a skill? Should they turn the bow into a storm again to deal with the approaching monsters? Seeing Alexander’s head turn, Bailephus spoke first.

『We can’t do that.』

“Of course, partner. I guess we have no choice but to move forward again.”

They didn’t know how long the battle would last. Most importantly, there was no need to kill them all. Alexander once again reminded himself that the main point of their operation was to increase their speed as much as possible and concentrate on throwing them off as they did last time.

“Puhihit, giant squid! There must be over two thousand dishes that can be made with squid in our country!”

“Oh my, so Petyr, will you cook for me?”

“Stop talking nonsense and just dance.”

“So rude. Now, everyone! Let’s work hard this time too, 『Socializing Dance』!”

Chiyou’s footsteps lightly touched the deck of the Blue Marlin. As expected, the attention of many users was focused on her dance, which was accompanied by the sound of musical instruments that seemed to come from somewhere. However, the attention that was focused on Chiyou soon shifted to the buff she had given.

“Oh……? What is this?”

“Wow! This is really amazing. This is a buff, right?”

“I-isn’t it a normal buff? Did you just try to raise your right arm?”

“Wow, amazing. How did you know?”

It was a buff that the new continent expedition members had received for the first time in their lives.

“The oracle sees the future through map-”

“- the dancer’s is like a ‘dance’…”

“You mean you can feel the other person’s movements?”


“Does this mean that monster attacks could also be predicted and read at least one second in advance? This is an incredible skill.”

Different jobs, but the same effect. This was one of the reasons why Chiyou was able to overpower other users with her quick movements even before they could move. Chiyou did not show it even though she heard their admiration and praise. She just smiled gently.

‘It’s a shame I had to reveal it already, but Shin Nara’s view of me isn’t good at all… ugh, it can’t be helped. This time, I will help with all my might.’

It was at that time that Shin Nara’s axe-like gaze towards Chiyou was lifted.

As the name of the skill she used, “Socializing Dance”, no one on the New Continent expedition could be fooled when it came to manipulating and managing human relations.

“They have reached 680m.”

“Wa… I don’t have to look at the map anymore.”

“That… Is that? Are the waves splitting over there?”

“What- hey, it looks like some kind of robot will appear.”

The users were unable to concentrate on Rubini’s words. There was no longer a need for a map.

The monsters haven’t even come out of the sea surface yet.

However, thanks to their gigantic size and the force of their approach against the ocean current, they created a scene that made it look like the sea surface was split in half.

There was no need to worry about what they were…

『Acceleration.』

The Blue Marlin sped up. Drake from the New Serpent saw this and slowed down. The two ships moving side by side suddenly lined up in a row. And it was almost at the same time that the starboard guns of the ships opened.

“Neeeeeeet!—”

“Nets!”

“Launch!”

“Laaaaaaunch—–!”

With the same but different shouts from the Kraven users, the culverins fired.


Hwiiiii….

A chain of bullets crashed into the sea surface. The users fell silent as they saw the spray rising with a roar that felt like the sea was about to explode. Was it serious? Did it hit? What happened?

“It hit. But-”

“Uwoooooo! Great! Aren’t the Kraven users are pretty good?!”

“Huh? Pirates! He is a privateer in name and in reality! If he can’t even hit a 30m squid, him being a captain-”

Kieeeeeeeee—eeeee—!

There was nothing on the sea surface. So, ‘how’ did it make a sound? Was it a roar of such magnitude that broke through the sea that impeded the transmission of sound and spread through the air…? The excited users quickly fell silent. Hook also couldn’t continue his words and kept his mouth shut.

“Rubini-nim? Could it be that what you were trying to say earlier… They hit the target but-”

Bobae felt a chill run down her spine. Rubini’s head slowly turned towards Bobae.

“Yes… it didn’t do any damage. And now- it’s coming up!”

Kiyaaaaaaaaaa—–

Crash, crash, crash-!

Giant squid legs began to pop out of the sea.

“Ship defense formation! Run side by side again! We must protect each other’s flanks!”

The Blue Marlin moved beside New Serpent again as Burke ordered. With just one attack, burke, a skilled sailor, could tell. The Kraken was not an enemy to be dealt with artillery or anything like that.

“It’s big!”

“It’s thick!”

“It’s long… and there’s so many!”

“Everyone, what are you doing?! Hurry up and fight!”

Bobae roared as she heard the exclamations of the users jumping out like dominoes. She pulled her bowstring without hesitation, but where should she shoot? Her hand trembled, aiming everywhere at the sea.


‘Where should I shoot? The Kraken is a squid-shaped monster- if it’s a squid, it has 10 legs!’

One squid had 10 legs. There were 14 Krakens. The number of legs sticking out of the sea surface already exceeded 100.

“Hmmm, 『Spread Arrow』!”

In that case, she shot all of them first! The result of Bobae’s passionate mindset scattered across the sea. The split arrows were stuck in the squids’ legs, which were as thick as the masts of the Blue Marlin and New Serpent.

“Good, did it work?!”

However, the movement of the squid’s legs did not change.

How much damage was done? No user could distinguish between the screams of the Kraken and the gunshots. Crossing between the two ships with the sounds of the skills echoing everywhere, fernand shouted loudly.

“No way! The legs are no use! Of course- if you cut off the leg, the attack will be neutralized, but it won’t be effective! It’s weak point is its body. Those damn Krakens! Just keep the legs in check as much as possible and avoid them! The main body must rise, and then you would deal the fatal blow!”

“Fernand-ssi…?”

“It can’t be helped! You have to make sacrifices against them! Because they are incredibly tenacious, their squid-like nature also applies in combat-! Save your skills and just keep them in check. The most important thing is timing! And evasion ability requires you to survive until the timing! And it shouldn’t cause any damage to the ship!”

Fernand exclaimed. Users were momentarily confused as they heard him pour out words in a different way from usual.

“This time….”

Fernand’s feelings were bound to be different from other users. The reason why the first new continent expedition had to turn back was because of the Kraken. Since it was barely a voyage that dealt with various sea creatures, there were no ships to sacrifice.

Thanks to the system where the ship with the user Fernand was given priority, other ships eventually sacrificed themselves, but the Kraken did not even look at them. Even though the ships were sacrificed, the Kraken pursued Fernand’s ship relentlessly.

‘In the end, we barely escaped by throwing a few injured NPCs into the sea… I still can’t forget the humiliation of that time.’

He knew it was a game, but the tension, crisis, and camaraderie came from being in a situation where they couldn’t go any further. Fernand had already felt it all forcibly during the first new continent expedition. By that kraken.

Kieeeeeee—-!

“One!”

Fernand’s shout was as loud as the kraken’s roar.

“W-what is it?”

“The first new continent expedition was destroyed because of just one kraken! This time there are fourteen! Do you know what I mean?!”

Even with simple calculations, it meant that the difficulty increased by 14 times. Moreover, this time, there were also fishmen and unidentified serpents with them. A sense of tension ran down the users’ spines.

Although the squid’s legs approached like a haze, the destructive power of each blow was by no means weak. Moreover, users should lure the krakens’ attacks, avoid them, and shoot their skills into the kraken’s main body, but they should also prevent damage to the ‘ship’?

“Are you scared, fernand?”

Flap— flap—!

Alexander’s voice was heard from the skies above the New Serpent.

“It’s not that I am scared-”

“Don’t worry.”

The leader of the expedition, and the first in the rankings knew exactly what he had to do at that moment. Something that instilled confidence. No matter who the enemy was or how many monsters they faced for the first time. He instilled confidence that could deal with others! 『 This is my first time seeing so many krakens. I would have liked it if the silver guy had seen it.』

“I guess he won’t be able to see it anymore.”

『I guess so. Heuuuuuurm—-!』 “Into the water!”

“Hakit- I’m so happ, so happy-!”

The fishmen who were swimming around the krakens hurriedly jumped into the water.

 『Where.』

Hwaaaaaa.

However, the ancient-class gold dragon’s breath was not that easy to dodge.

Where the ultra-high heat of the breath, which evaporated water, passed, only cloudy vapor remained, rising like a haze. Along with a few charred squid legs. Was the kraken and serpent raid difficult?

The person who blew away Fernand’s, the mermaid NPCs’, and Leeha’s worries like dust was Alexander, with his dragon, Bailephus.

Kieeeee—–!

Before the steam could disappear, a squid’s head popped out of the water.

Was it the guy hit by Bailephus’ breath? It didn’t matter.

『Judgement of Justice』.”

Shwaaaaaaak!

Alexander’s spear stretched like a pole, and white light began to gather at its tip. His unique skill was powerful enough to cause Faust trauma when he saw it! It was not a skill given to a dragon knight. It was given only to those who protect ‘justice’, slay demons, and enforce goodness! Lee Jiwon also climbed onto the mast and drooled.

“Let’s go.”

Alexander grabbed Bailephus by the neck and put the spear under his arm. The gold dragon, Alexander, and his spear shot toward the kraken as if they were originally one.

Kiiiiii, kiyaaaaaaak-

The kraken was struck by light but there was nothing it could do. Its burnt legs did not listen.

Just like instinct, the kraken opened its mouth toward the light that was coming toward it.

“Shut up, squid.”

And as one, Alexander and Bailephus flew straight toward the kraken’s maw. It was an incredibly destructive force that entered the kraken’s mouth and came out the back of its head.

It wasn’t big enough to swallow Bailephus wholly, so the kraken’s head was completely shattered immediately after the charge.

(To be continued…)
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 “Waaah!”

“Watching that charge attack, Alexander seems like the main character.”

“Hmm, wow, what a savory smell.”

“…Is that really your impression after seeing that skill, Kijung-ssi?”

Although Bobae scolded Kijung as he wrinkled his nose, it was actually a positive sign.

“Keke, well, considering it’s an ancient-class dragon causing such a ruckus… though they only caught one, we can do as well.”

“Awesome! There, Jin-nim! Is the fire magic you mentioned last time ready?”

“Countdown 15 seconds! Let’s go together!”

This signaled a resurgence of energy among the previously stunned players. As the magician players began casting their skills, Pei Wu, ‘Bald Panda’, and the brothers, daoist Baeju and Daoist Mu also leaped out of the ship.

“We will lure them away so they cannot approach the ship!”

“In the New Serpent, we’ll target the ones starting on the left first – 1, 2, 3, 4. Give us a signal before using area skills!”

Choi-choi-!

Even while swiftly moving across the water, they managed to plan and execute with ease.

But they weren’t alone. Dragon Tamer Yongyong and his pet, summoner Elmi with his summons, and Jin Gonggong also began distracting the Krakens by attacking their tentacles while transforming them into flying objects.

The krakens, moving towards the ship, couldn’t continue their approach. Though they weren’t receiving significant damage, losing their ‘means of attack’ – their tentacles – made further movement difficult.

『Iron Wire Net』

『Whirlwind Kick』

The martial artists skillfully dodged the squids’ tentacles, which danced through the air trying to grasp them.

Catching the martial artists, with their swift and small movements, was nearly impossible for the squids in the water.

“Jin-nim!? Are you ready?”


Pyro had already finished casting, trembling as he called out to Elementalist ‘Jin’.

With a full mana charge, a slight loss of concentration could cause an involuntary release of the skill, but even in such a situation, his control was impeccable.

“Ready!”

“We’ll help too.”

“Just tell us the number, arsonist.”

Kidd and Luger also approached as Pyro’s big mouth opened from side to side.

“Awesome, then target number twoooo—”

The New Serpent, which had been sailing steadily, seemed to shudder from the impact.

Pyro, a descendant of the Fire Mage Hero; Jin, a descendant of the Elementalist Hero; Kidd and Luger, descendants of the Musketeer Heroes.

The skills of these four poured forward like fire, leaving no tentacles in their path.

Kieeeee!

Unable to bear the pain, the main body of the Kraken surfaced, and as Luger reloaded his cannon, a voice swiftly approached from behind.

“Hard leash done, pissed off, 〈Soul Blaze〉”

“Lee-Lee Jiwon, you ba-”

『Corona Jet』!”

Shuwaak!

Lee Jiwon, like lightning, precisely struck the Kraken’s eye with his black sword.

Not stopping there, he twisted the sword as if to burrow into the eye, executing a brutal move. This gruesome act was an attack on the kraken’s instant death point, a product of Lee Jiwon’s experience with super-large monsters. The Kraken turned into light in an instant.

“Epic experience points! Thanks! Good job!”

“You- you bastard, just like last time with Igor! Stop, you damn-”


Luger, furious, was about to chase after him, but Lee Jiwon had already disappeared using flight magic.

Luger, boiling with rage, redirected his anger towards another kraken. It wasn’t just about blocking or fighting back.

Even as battle-specialized players were in action, news of a perfect division of labor according to each profession’s characteristics was being communicated between the two ships.

“Phew, at least the traps on the stern are all set. If the kraken’s tentacles touch them, they’re toast.”

“I’ve completed the shield fragments too! I’ll ensure the Blue Marlin’s mainmast won’t break!”

“Totems have been placed around each corner and the helm of the New Serpent.”

“If anyone’s HP is low, come to me! I’ll take all the hits for you! Damn, those count as melee attacks, right?”

“I also have Guardian Saint’s Sword, I can refill HP and MP!”

Witnessing their best skill arrangements for the ‘New Continent Expedition’, fernand shivered momentarily. This team was indeed ‘real’.

Kieeeee!

More difficult than before by tenfold?

Their team now was at least a hundred times stronger than the first New Continent Expedition!

“It doesn’t matter, you damned squids!”

Fernand, overwhelmed, shouted as if clearing years of pent-up frustration, but the krakens didn’t respond.

“Hakit, hakyuuuut-!”

“Hakyu, hakyu!”

As the aggravating merfolk started popping up here and there, the atmosphere of the sea changed slightly.

“Kok, what’s this- Hyung!”

“Dongsaeng-ah! 『Blocking Art』!”

Shiiik, daaak!


A talisman thrown by Daoist Baeju attached to a black line approaching Daoist Mu. It was supposed to neutralize the skill like a dispel, but the black line didn’t stop.

“Oh?”

In an instant, the black line reached Daoist Mu.

Pooook…!

With a dull sound, daoist Mu’s body plunged into the sea.

“Mu, mu! Damn-”

Before Daoist Baeju could react, a white line stretched horizontally before him. By the time he realized it was too late, he was already airborne. Their vision blurred red as they crossed between the kraken’s tentacles.

Taken down by a mere physical attack.

The black line shot vertically, and the white line, sweeping horizontally, re-entered the sea.

Puhwaak! Puhwaak!

Shortly after, water splashed again.

At first, it seemed like pillars had risen, but what the players saw were four vertically elongated pupils.

“That’s…”

“Serpents…”

Black serpent and white serpent. Every flick of their tongues, the light shone from their vertically elongated eyes. Their glare was so intense that it seemed it could even pierce Rubini’s oracle mask.

“Hyuk! Garit-! Haki!”

Hakyukukukyukyukyukyu——|Hakikakikakikaki——! When the merfolk, thrilled, began swimming noisily, the two Serpents started approaching the ships.

Leeha: The Kraken’s weakness is the torso, where its eyes are?

“That’s right. Understanding the body structure of a squid makes it simple… However, if one mistakenly believes the top triangle to be the brain, it will be a tough battle.”

“Korororok.”

Leeha nodded.

According to Kijung’s recent whisper, it seemed the New Continent Expedition did not need to worry about that.

‘Lee Jiwon and everyone else are like monsters when it comes to finding weaknesses. The problem might be what just happened.’ Kijung’s last whisper.

“Ah, the sea snakes-‘ The communication stopped there.

‘That’s definitely not ordinary.’ Although the team had to save time, Leeha kept talking to Sea Bream.

Leeha: What about the Serpents? What’s their weakness?

『Adorned with a shining crown, pulling a twin-chariot, ruling the seas – the Sea God’s glory and power are told in this sea. Within the Dragon Palace’s waters, the shining crown represents the Sea God’s power, and outside, it’s the twin chariot.”

“Korororok?”

It was hard to understand, but Sea Bream had some understanding of the nuance to some extent.

“Exactly, those two beings, adorned with glory, pulling the twin chariot, are the Serpents… Indeed, they are the literal strongest. No sea creature in the ocean can defeat the Serpents. The giant moray eels are just their snack, and even the Giant Albatross, occasionally descending near the sea surface, gets snatched up and eaten. Krakens? They spray ink and flee upon facing Serpents.”

“Korororok.”

“There’s no weakness. Flame? Water? Ice? Electricity? No magic works on them. And their skin, harder than the deepest sea rock? The biggest problem is that. They’re not beings that human weapons can affect.”

Sea Bream had a complex expression.

The Serpents, embodying even the Sea God’s power, were a source of pride for the Undine race. But the current situation?

It became a problem. If the humans were annihilated by the overly powerful Serpents… then it was their turn to face trouble.

“What? Skills don’t work? Then how are they supposed to just fight? If they just fight, will it become mutual destruction and die together?”

Perhaps they just had to find a way to buy time.

Sea Bream’s complex expression and Anderson’s gloomy face didn’t deter Leeha.

He kept striving for more information, communicating everything to Kijung and the other players.

Leeha: Then, is there no way to defeat them, even if it’s not their weakness? Do we just have to fight blindly? It’s the primitive way of raiding! It would be great if there was a more efficient method given the circumstances, but if not, we’ll have to do it that way.

‘No, there must be a way. If it’s as Sea Bream says, we might be facing a difficulty level beyond a high-ranking boss, perhaps even greater than an adult white dragon raid… It’s too much to ask us to beat them without any kind of strategy.’

The interrogation of Sea Bream continued relentlessly.

Meanwhile, the users on the ship were desperately hoping for Leeha to obtain such information even a minute sooner.

“Hurry up and say something!”

Leeha’s impatience was growing by the second.

『Ice Blast!』

『Salamander Rush』!”

The spells of Ram Hwajung and Jin were cast swiftly.

The serpents did not even flinched from the lizard-shaped flame, and condensed ice.

And in a flash, they darted off the surface.

——–!!

Shwoooosh…

When their eyes seemed to flicker for a moment, the skills of Ram Hwajung and Jin were already nullified.

“Damn, it’s a failure!”

“No way, what are we supposed to do if our skills don’t work?”

As Bobae and Kijung felt helpless, two figures burst out from the water onto the New Serpent.

“Pant, pant, lady Raphaela! Please start with healing the Taoist brothers!”

“Pant, pant, ever since the serpents got involved, the merfolk and the Kraken have become more rampant! If we don’t deal with this quickly, it will be hard to even lure them! Right now, lord Alexander and Lady Beilephus are the only ones holding back the entire Kraken!”

Pei Wu and ‘Bald Panda’, who was carrying one user each, also shook their heads down.

Now, it was becoming more and more difficult for the other users to keep the monsters from approaching the ships.

There were still 10 krakens left.

It meant that the gold dragon was dealing with them alone.

They managed to return to the ship after luring the Krakens, but they were not allowed even the slightest time to rest. (To be continued…)
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 “Buhihihat, I’ve prepared a surprise party for you lazy fellows, so don’t just lie there, catch some fishmen!”

『Lunge』!”

Occasional fishmen coming aboard were being handled by remaining users like Pitreuna and Shin Nara, but their numbers were steadily increasing.

Soon, the number of fishmen that might climb aboard would be too great for the users to stop.

“Damn, how are we supposed to run away for more than 20 days from those following us without resistance to the waves?!”

“Weren’t we prepared for this from the start?! Speed up more!”

Burke and Kraven users bickered but remained focused on controlling the ship.

But as Burke said, maintaining similar speed was only possible under the assumption of proper checks against the monsters. Without that check?

It was only natural for the fishmen, krakens, and serpents to approach the ship.

“Hyein-nim, are you ready again?”

“Should I raise it to the eye level of the serpent?”

At Hyein’s words, Kidd nodded and drew his revolver.

“Wild Punch won’t work on them, you know that better than anyone, Kidd.”

“I can’t just stand by doing nothing like you, Luger.”

“Who said I was doing nothing?”

Thunk, thunk.

Luger loaded two rounds into his 『Cobalt Blue Python』. Kidd’s lips slightly rose at the sight.

Luger was like the embodiment of combat, having grown even more since his defeat to Alexander. Watching his unusual loading method, Kidd smirked.

“Anyway… everyone’s good at pretending, aren’t they?”

“It’s not as good as Ha Leeha. And if we don’t kill this damn snakehead, who knows how he will nag on us, so there’s nothing else I can do about it…”


“I agree on that.”

Kidd raised his right arm. Luger, having finished loading, raised his left arm in response.

“Casting complete!”

“Go wild, Kidd. I’ll support you this time.”

With the encouragement of Hyein and Luger, Kidd took a deep breath and stepped forward.

『Reverse Gravity』, 『Space Grab』

When Hyein’s staff hit the ground, Kidd had already assumed his position in midair.

Sshhh-

Shaahhh

The Serpents gliding across the water’s surface suddenly stopped advancing when they spotted the human jumping into the air.

Just raising their heads was enough to reach the height of the ship’s mainmast, their massive bodies clearly showing their immense size.

“Uh, Kidd-ssi!”

“What are you trying to do now- 『Thunder Bolt』!”

A light flashed from Armboost’s crossbow.

The powerful electrical energy in the bolt was the worst possible attack for aquatic creatures.

Sssssssht—–ting!

However, as if bothered by a mere fly, the White Serpent lifted its tail and easily swatted away the bolt.

“The bolt didn’t even penetrate-”

“It even ignored the electric attribute.”

“Kiskis, and to think it reacted to that speed.”


The Serpent’s hardness, attribute nullification, and agility were evident, but Armboost’s attack wasn’t entirely useless. It had diverted the Serpents’ attention from Kidd for a moment.

Shaahhh——!

The Serpents then turned their eyes back towards Kidd, rushing as if to devour him.

“Luger! Just three more seconds-”

“Damn, you go up there all confident and then use a skill that takes forever! 『Shell Strengthening』, 『Kolos Kugel』.”

Luger raised his voice while preparing his 『Cobalt Blue Python』. The heavy barrel, louder than usual, barely rested on the ship’s railing. Many skills have been unleashed until now.

But none, including explosions and flames, had worked on the creature, as other users had already realized.

‘Kolos Kugel? What does that mean? If you use a vague skill, it’ll be hard to even stall for time-’

Hyein watched Luger with concern. A sage analyzing user types and a 『Penetrating』 Musketeer of instinctual hunting type could never understand each other.

“Hehehe, the weakness of the Serpents is that they don’t avoid attacks, overly confident they can take them! Now’s not the time for complex skills!”

Clang-!

Luger knew the Serpents could delete skills. So, his plan was simpler.

“Just push through with 『strength』!”

Luger aimed and immediately pulled the trigger. A thunderous boom followed.

Gwaang, Kwaaang———!

Kolos Kugel!

When the skill 『Giant Cannonball』 was cast, what shot out of Luger’s Cobalt Blue Python were two rock-sized projectiles.

“Wow!?”

“What, how can bullets larger than the barrel come out?”

The users were momentarily stunned by the skill.


Normally, the shells would be invisible due to their speed, but they were clearly visible to everyone due to their enormous size.

“I’ll crush your heads, you damn snakes!”

Each cannonball weighed about 30kg, and though their speed was slightly reduced, they still flew at 340km/h!

The Serpents, surprised by the 30kg projectiles flying at the speed of sound, shaaaaa——-! The Serpents’ eyes lit up but the cannonball did not disappear…

It wasn’t a skill, it was literally an enhanced physical attack!

“Kyahahahaha, if you’re such a smart guy, what is the kinetic energy of a 30kg object flying at 340km/h?”

Hyak!

Even though Luger suddenly asked a question, Hyein did not hesitate. Spatial coordinates are based on physics and mathematics, and questions like that were not difficult at all for Hyein, although mental calculations were cumbersome. Rather at this moment! The sage, and the musketeer who acted on instinct, who seemed to be unable to understand each other at all, were shocked by the same ‘numerical value’.

“A-about 133 million joules! It is greater than the total energy generated when a compact car weighing 800 kg crashes at 60 km/h!”

The total kinetic energy was 133,783,704J.

Sh,shiiiiiit—!

Luger was ignorant. No in some way, he was the smartest. The serpents quickly swung their tails and tried to hit the cannonballs. However, the kinetic energy was retained.

Dugwaaaak…!

The serpent’s body swayed and bounced.

The strongest aquatic creatures plunged into the sea.

“I asked him to delay for three seconds and he ended up stealing the spotlight.”

Kidd, a bit embarrassed, didn’t really mind.

If the serpents, boasting their agility, couldn’t dodge?

Now was the best opportunity.

“If you’re grateful, crawl between my legs, Kidd!”

“I’m not grateful at all.”

Luger knew that. Kidd replied gruffly and used his skill.

Though it was a whisper, Kidd heard Luger clearly.

Before the skill was fully cast, Luger was shocked by its name.

『The Magnificent Seven』

“That damn Kidd…”

Luger cursed, not sure at whom, just instinctively.

The blurry figures forming in the air around Kidd were six in total.

“There were three during the Wild Bunch. Does this mean he’s grown since the Crolang fight?”

Including Kidd, how many bullets did the four figures fire?

Luger remembered the rapid and continuous firing, comparable to an automatic rifle.

“Now, the attack power has doubled. Six phantoms surround Kidd, each taking slightly different poses. Last time it was 『Rapid Fire』 like an automatic rifle, this time it’s almost Gatling-level.”

Luger didn’t need to see the skill’s power to know. The preparation was quick, and the shooting was quicker.

“Let’s go.”

At Kidd’s signal, the revolvers began firing.

Seven people, each with four guns, each gun firing six shots. The gunfire continued endlessly, enough to deafen the users.

-In just an instant, 336 bullets were fired.

168 bullets struck the Black Serpent’s scales, another 168 tore into the White Serpent.

The fishmen floating in the water couldn’t react to Kidd’s attack.

Even they couldn’t properly handle the Serpents they had barely brought along, now lying limp on the sea surface.

“Hoo-oo-oo~.”

Kidd twirled his revolver twice and holstered it.

“Hanging out with Alexander got to you. Why twirl a gun?”

“Hmm, well, this is… called ‘sway’, Luger.”

“Bullshit. It’s just showing off.”

Hyein, still in the circle, was perplexed by the users who just used the skill, now making such simple jokes.

It seemed like the descendants of the 『Second Human-Demon War heroes, the Three Musketeers』, had to have such characters.

But even Leeha couldn’t deny it. He was included in Hyein’s conjecture, after all. ※ ※

“Phantoms…? A summoning skill?”

“Hehe, maybe I should look for a new job as a descendant of the specter.”

“Yikes!”

“Wow… But if they shot that at me- how would I even block it?”

On the Blue Marlin and New Serpent ships, amazement, shock, and cheers erupted.

Two Serpents plunged into the sea, and the fishmen were bewildered for a while.

This was a precious opportunity created solely by the two Musketeers.

“Hoo… It’s finally down, but that thing was a real monster.”

“Just one tail swipe took away three-quarters of my health… I don’t want to get hit by that again.”

Now other users, including the martial artists, taoist Baeju and Taoist Mu, had a chance to recover.

“The krakens are proving to be more troublesome than expected. Baelyphus, how many are left?”

“About eight remain. They’re barely showing their legs now. Are they planning to move only underwater?”

Bailephus roamed the skies, whistling and humming, after his initial breath attack. Since then, the krakens had become too fearful to even extend their legs to the sea surface.

It was hard to tell if they were quick-witted or simply weak.

For Alexander and Bailephus, these monsters were not particularly difficult to deal with, but they remained a constant irritation.

“I’d appreciate it if you could also keep an eye on their magic.”

“I know. We must prevent them from reaching the ships.”

If they were distracted even for a moment, one of the Krakens might approach the ship.

Trappers, sculptors, and Shamans had set up various defensive skills, but these were only effective against one or two of them.

Alexander knew all too well that the more their numbers increased, the more likely it was for the ship to be destroyed.

“If there’s anything fortunate, it’s the performance of the ‘Three Musketeers’. Bailephus, they have done well in fending off those Serpents you were worried about.”

“Hmm. It shouldn’t have been just Ha Leeha we focused on. Luger and Kidd are also growing significantly. Aren’t you feeling the pressure, Alexander?”

“Flame Strike.”

Even while conversing with Alexander, Bailephus continued to thrust his fire magic into the sea. (To be continued…)
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 Beyond the rising spray, the black stain of the kraken retreating deeper below could be seen.

“Nervous? Why should I be nervous?”

『Haha, is that so?』

Alexander’s calm demeanor made Bailephus laugh heartily.

Neither Luger’s skill which unleashed incredible force nor Kidd’s skill, which brought forth firepower reminiscent of a gatling gun to the medieval Middle Earth setting, could unsettle Alexander.

“Huh?”

On the contrary, the real tension lay elsewhere.

Alexander frowned, looking towards the opposite side of the deck.

Shi– Sha-ah-ah-ah-ah-ah.

“Whoah…!”

“S-Serpents are rising!”

Like strands of seaweed floating on the water, two serpents were slowly rising. Despair-laden anxiety spread across the Blue Marlin and New Serpent. How could they stop them now? Summoning Bailephus would mean the ships would be destroyed by the Krakens. It seemed they had to rely solely on the users’ strength.

However, the users were not fully recovered yet, and their skills were still in cooldown.

At that moment, everyone – from rankers like Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Ram Hwajung to all other users – was momentarily frozen in thought.

“Phew… Please, if anyone has an escape scroll, let me know. If I safely leave, I’ll contact you. Give me your number or something.”

Amidst this, a user began stretching his wrists and ankles, stepping forward. He looked somewhat naive and visibly nervous. A sturdy figure with a playful face, an oddly fitting combination.

“Uh… Kijung-ssi?”

Bobae’s eyes widened in surprise. Watching Kijung steady his breath, and grip his weapon and shield, he too cracked a small smile.

“How long can I last if I tank?”

“What are you-”


“E-Even if I can just buy us 10 minutes, that should be enough to gain some distance, right?”

“What! That’s insane! I can’t allow this.”

Bobae immediately understood Kijung’s plan. The only tanker among the current users was proposing to buy time. He might last for a while. He could buy a solid 5 minutes.

But what after that?

“Kijung-ssi, you will die! We can’t even come back and save you!”

100% certain death.

Yet Kijung’s eyes were resolute.

“Someone has to do it, right? Haha, isn’t that so?”

He knew what he was proposing. Bobae was speechless, looking at his face.

“Kikik, are they really brothers?”

“Even though they said they aren’t.”

Biyemi and Jin Gonggong also chimed in, voicing their disapproval just like Bobae.

“Kay, we can’t do without you. Considering the possibility of more creatures after the Serpents or even after reaching the New Continent… we need our hard tanker.”

Hyein too stepped up, grabbing Kijung’s arm.

But Kijung remained steadfast. If there were any other way, he would have taken it. But there wasn’t.

All ‘humans’ on both ships knew there was no other option.

“No, it’s not a hopeless idea. Hook! Will you take the wheel?”

“Uh… Captain Drake?”

But it wasn’t just ‘humans’ on the ships.

Drake handed the wheel to Hook and walked towards the railing where Kijung stood.


“Master Kay.”

“Yes, captain Drake.”

“How long can you last?”

“I don’t know the exact strength of those Serpents, but… at least ten hits.”

Taoist Baeju and Taoist Mu, were healers who were also adept in close combat with significantly more stamina than average priests. Even they couldn’t withstand a single hit. But Kijung was confident he could take ten.

The surrounding users were astounded, but Kijung was not overestimating his abilities.

His armor was different from the Taoist brothers, and he could receive buffs.

‘Moreover, I have the sword given by Leeha hyung..’

“Uh… Just hold for 3 minutes.”

“Three minutes?”

Did he understand the difference between ten hits and three minutes?

Before Kijung could respond, drake had already begun his plan.

“Please.”

Whooooosh!

“Wha-”

Drake’s energy burst forth from beneath him, startling even Bailephus who was fending off the Krakens.

“What’s happening?”

『The aura of the Sea God?』

“The Sea God’s aura? Is Drake planning something?”

『It’s more than just planning. Drake is probably…』


Bailephus glanced briefly at the deck of the New Serpent ship.

Drake and the users around him glowed with a flickering blue light.

“Hey! Drake! You damned fool! What are you trying to do?!”

“Burke.”

“Hold the wheel, drake! Don’t fool around, hold the wheel! We’re seafarers! Humans!”

Despite Burke’s bellowing voice from the other ship, his plea faded into futility. Drake paused to look at Burke handling the Blue Marlin’s wheel, but that was all.

He turned his head back towards the serpents.

“If you’re really human, then hold the wheeeeeeel!”

Burke’s cry, knowing his lifelong rival was about to do something, about to ‘transform’, was in vain.

Sssssssssss—

Sha-ah-ah-ah—

“Three minutes… Rafaela, taoist sirs, give me full buffs! And everyone else, get below deck! We can’t afford any mishaps now, hurry inside!”

What about the users if everyone went below? Their questions remained unanswered, but they had no choice. The only option left was to trust in Drake and Kijung, and pray.

As the users’ thoughts aligned, they rushed into the cabin with the NPCs. Only one person remained hesitating.

“Ki, Kijung-ssi!”

“Bobae! Go below before I get angry! You saw it yourself, arrows don’t work on them!”

Kijung raised his voice at Bobae for the first time.

“But…”

Bobae looked heartbroken. If they failed? Kijung’s journey would end. If lucky, he might respawn in the last town of the Old Continent, but he’d lose all the merits of being with the New Continent expedition. Bobae couldn’t bear to watch the man she cared for sacrifice himself.

“Don’t worry. Just go below. Sometimes when a man shows his brave side, it’s more charming to just hide and watch. Hee, Bobae, your cheeks have gotten chubbier.”

Kijung approached Bobae, grabbing her cheeks. Unresisting, Bobae didn’t push his hand away. Only Shin Nara from the Blue Marlin vaguely saw this.

“Alright. If I die, so be it! But if I succeed-”

“Haha, I get it! Don’t worry!”

As Kijung and Bobae exchanged glances, rafaela and the other healers’ skills covered Kijung completely.

“Aja! Let’s die once today!”

Kijung charged toward the black serpent approaching the deck of the New Serpent ship.

The first attack on Kijung, blocking Drake, wasn’t a tail whip.

Sha-ah-ah-ah-ah-ah!

The black-scaled sea serpent opened its jaws wide enough to sever Kijung’s waist.

“Come at meeeeee!”

The event happened on the eighth day of entering the Sea of the Dragon Palace.

※ ※The black and white serpents had heads much larger than a human. The lightning-fast attack, twisting its neck, was enough to bite Kijung’s entire body, excluding his head.

The sound of armor crumpling could be heard even on the Blue Marlin. Not just the armor, Kijung’s face protruding from the serpent’s jaw was also severely contorted.

One thing Kijung and Leeha hadn’t disclosed was their synchronization rate.

For precise and reliable tanking, Kijung’s rate exceeded 50%.

The realism he felt in Middle Earth was even more intense than Leeha’s. The pain from the serpent’s teeth was far from negligible.

The users on the Blue Marlin hadn’t all gone below deck. A minimum defense force was necessary to handle the merfolk leaping onto the left deck. So, they saw Kijung being bitten clearly.

“Ki, Kijung!”

Shin Nara’s scream was so loud she covered her mouth with her hands.

“Don’t scream… Bobae might hear.”

Kijung barely turned his head to look at the Blue Marlin. Shin Nara’s face wasn’t visible.

“My vision’s okay. A 10% decrease isn’t as bad as I thought. Lucky my head wasn’t bitten.”

It looked as though a giant hand was gripping Kijung. But instead of a soft hand, it was the razor-sharp teeth of a venomous sea serpent. It wa not a pleasant feeling for Kijung.

Crunch-!

The serpent’s teeth bit through the armor again, finding gaps to pierce. Kijung could distinctly feel the cold, sharp objects drilling into his skin.

“So, a snake is a snake after all.”

The combo of status ailments of 『Poison』​​, 『Bleed』​​, and 『Stun』​​.

Considering that ordinary snakes and reptilian monsters usually possess one type of venom, the serpent truly lived up to its name as a formidable monster.

“If it weren’t for the sword Leeha hyung gave me, I would’ve been in real trouble. If I had been stunned in this situation, I’d definitely be dead.”

The serpent’s biting attack was classified as a ‘close-range attack’.

Thanks to the buff from the unnamed Paladin’s sword, this attack’s damage was effectively halved. Though the status ailments ​​ 『Poison』​​, and 『Bleed』 and the damage itself were not trivial, not falling into a 『Stun』 was a massive relief for Kijung.

‘Kiki, well, even without the status ailments, being bitten by such a gigantic snake would knock anyone out from shock.’

Even in this situation, Kijung joked with himself to ease the tension, shaking his head. If he just stood there and watched the continuous damage take its toll, things could really turn dangerous.

“Get out quickly, Kijung-ssi!”

Kijung: D-Don’t shout. Ah! Can you keep what you saw here a secret from Bobae-ssi…?

Even then, his concern about showing weakness in front of the woman he liked was perhaps a typical male sentiment.

Kijung quickly shot a glance at Shin Nara and began to exert all his strength.

“Damn snake… bastard!”

Sssssssssss—

The Black Serpent was baffled that its prey was still alive.

And not even unconscious? For the serpent, heralded as the strongest aquatic creature by Sea Bream, this was an incomprehensible response.

(To be continued…).
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 Kijung grumbled as he raised his arms. His right hand held a sword, and his left hand, with a shield, desperately struggled to reach the ceiling and tongue of the serpent.

Cr-creaaaak…

Having a realism rate exceeding 50% didn’t just mean feeling pain as if it were real. It meant that in Middle Earth, he could move his entire body more realistically! When Kijung’s face turned bright red as if it were about to burst, he gathered his strength and pushed the mouth of the serpent with both arms.

“My strength is the same as the physical strength in Middle Earth!”

Swish!

Kijung swung the nameless paladin’s sword fiercely as it came out of the serpent’s mouth. However, the intelligent serpent had long predicted and prepared for his counterattack.

Screaaam!

The black serpent that had bitten Kijung quickly lifted its head, and when Kijung fumbled into the empty air, what flew at him was the tail of the white serpent.

“Are you going to take it twice!? 『Apollo’s Guardian』, 『Swift Defense』!”

Aaaaah!

An orange light flashed from Kijung’s body.

Kijung wasn’t just a tanker that only used a shield. His occupation was a Templar, a holy knight of the Ezwen Theocracy. He converted the divine power he possessed into defensive power, buffed himself to respond to the attacks of his agile enemies, and even prepared to face large enemies without retreating!

“And 『Vanguard Stance』! If it’s self-buffs, I’ve got as many as you want!”

 Before finishing his sentence, the tail of the White Serpent struck Kijung.

“Ki-Kijung!”

Shin Nara shouted again, but even that sound was swallowed up by other noises around. Even after the white serpent’s initial tail strike against Kijung, the attacks did not stop.

Kwang, kwang, Kwaah—!

The black serpent and the white serpent took turns striking Kijung from all directions continuously swinging their tails at him, trying to nail him.

Other users from the Blue Marlin were in panic due to the relentless attacks. With the enormous whip relentlessly lashing Kijung’s body, his silhouette was barely visible.

“Ki-Kijung!”


Shin Nara, who had raised most of her levels through the quests of the Royal Palace and the Sacred Knights, felt like she would faint just by watching the situation.

Overwhelming differences in physique and indiscriminate attacks! The users of the Blue Marlin could only tell that Kijung was still alive after hearing his desperate shout.

“Ugh! Try hitting me more, you snake bastards—-!”

As if the serpents understood Kijung’s shout. Their attacks became fiercer and faster.

Shiiiiit—!!

Real serpents leaped around at the end of the New Serpent ship’s deck.

Kijung’s declaration that he could endure ten attacks had long passed. In less than a minute, more than eighteen attacks had been inflicted on him.

However, the time Drake had asked for was three minutes. Kijung’s ordeal was just beginning. Intermittent noises were heard inside the closed cabins of the ship. Sounds of something hitting hard, someone screaming or shouting…!

“What was that noise just now? Wasn’t that Kijung’s voice?”

Bobae’s hand, which was gripping her bow so tightly that it had made her fists turn white, flinched at that moment.

Her gestures and expression, like an anxious wet puppy, seemed as if she would run out at any moment, but other users had a different opinion.

“Kiskis, if you go out now, the Guild Master will blame us, Bobae-nim.”

“Sometimes you need to trust and wait.”

Biyemi and Hyein knew roughly what the relationship was between Bobae and Kijung. However, Bobae was not only worried because she and Kijung were close to being lovers.

“However… Kijung seems weak.”

Bobae had never participated in hunting with Kijung. While she had seen Kijung fighting in a tournament, it was only in a PvP situation. She had never experienced raid hunting against boss-level monsters, so it was natural for her to be concerned.

Chiyou, who had crossed over to the New Serpent ship and was sitting in the cabin with them, shared the same concern.

‘Right. When it comes to skills, master Kay of Byulcho is probably the most unremarkable… Wasn’t he chosen as the successor guild master mainly because of his friendly personality?’

The users of the Blue Marlin were worried for Kijung, facing a formidable opponent like the serpents.

Even with the information held by the leader of the Shinobigumi, not much was known about Kijung. Byulcho wasn’t a guild of continental scale, and after losing in the guild war against Hwahong, it didn’t attract much attention. However, Chiyou could sense something. looking at the expressions of Biyemi and Hyein, who were also from Byulcho.


‘They’re strangely calm.’

After facing the overwhelming skills of Luger and Kidd, the appearance of these serpents was remarkable. Considering their intelligent movements, swift agility, and ability to dispel most spells, each serpent seemed to be at least level 280 or higher, equivalent to a field boss. With a bit more strength, they could be compared to an adult dragon.

‘It doesn’t make sense for him to solo tank, especially two of them… Igor should be able to face them with full doping. But for a tanker with no significant attacking skills…’

Chiyou wondered if Kijung, without any formidable attack skills, could truly endure for three minutes alone against these powerful opponents. Despite the guild master’s decision to go out, the guild members seemed strangely composed. Was it a rational decision to sacrifice a tanker who wouldn’t be of much help anyway?

‘I thought so… but is there something they’re hiding?’

Chiyou quickly glanced at Biyemi, Hyein, and other users who were close to Kijung. Their faces only showed smiles, but there was something about those expressions that bothered Chiyou.

“Kik, this, this… It seems like our guild master wanted to look cool for a change.”

“Well, that’s what it looks like to me too. We’ll keep it a secret that Bobae-nim said that.”

“W-What are you talking about…?”

In response to Biyemi and Jin Gonggong, Bobae just chuckled, and Hyein, with a calm face, reassured her.

“Kay has a weaker side due to his personality, but it’s not just because of that that he became the guild master.”

“Really…?”

“Kik, you wouldn’t know even if you heard it. Do you know about ‘Tanking Angle’?”

“What? No…”

“Middle Earth doesn’t simply take damage as it is. It might be like that if the combat assist system is on… Anyway, the better the tanker, the more they can adjust the angle and location of the enemy’s attack by observing the enemy’s attack motion. I learned it from Master Kay not too long ago, so it’s embarrassing to pretend I know it.”

Kijung Gonggong explained in response to Hyein and Biyemi’s words. Kijung was so kind as to share his expertise with Kijung Gonggong, who was not even in the same guild. He thought it might be because of his personality that he became the guild master, but it seems that’s not the case.

“Hehe, and our guild master – even I find it hard to believe… but looking at it that way, he’s a genius at ‘tank angles.'”

There were different critical and instant death points. Even in areas where normal attacks were applied, damage varied for each part. So, wouldn’t there be a system like that for defense? Of course, there was! Adjusting the ‘tank angle’ essentially meant 『getting hit as least painfully as possible』, which can’t be considered a useless talent. Kijung instinctively knew this expertise. It truly is a talent for a ‘tank’ to face opponents not through evasion but through defense.

****

Leeha: What, using seawater as the source of health recovery? That’s totally cheating.”


“That’s right. While human strength may be trusted, it’s impossible to defeat a serpent with their attacks alone.”

Sea Bream and Anderson didn’t slow down amidst all this. Now even if Leeha suggested going back, it was impossible to turn back. Leeha also had no intention of going back. However, the strategy for dealing with the kraken was already challenging, and the method to tackle the serpent was even more daunting, causing frustration.

Leeha: So then, what exactly…?

“There’s only one method..”

Leeha: What is it?

“If the serpents are being forcibly controlled by the fishmen… there is a way. You just need to release them from that control.”

Leeha: Do you mean capturing all the fishmen?

Leeha raised his head, asking in a whisper. He could see Sea Bream nodding while holding him from behind and rapidly moving forward.

“No, it’s not that. Controlling serpents… and, controlling intelligent serpents is not something ordinary fishmen can do. As I mentioned before, serpents receive the power of the sea god and are beings that carry out the sea god’s influence throughout the entire ocean.”

“… Bubble-!”

Bubbles burst from Leeha’s mouth. He understood the nuance Sea Bream was trying to convey.

Leeha: You mean… the corrupted sea god sent the serpents?

“If they simply herded the serpents, that wouldn’t be the case… it would be difficult to lead intelligent serpents with mere threats or herding. There’s a high probability that it’s mind control. When I last saw them, there were no fishmen born with the ability to control at the level of ‘mental domination.’ So, it’s possible that the sea god… no, however, I can’t confirm. All I can say is that it’s the most likely possibility.”

Leeha: Well, anyway! Whether it’s the sea god or a new type of fishman! How can we free the serpents from being controlled?

Sea Bream remained silent for a moment. Anderson, having no more information, kept his mouth shut. When Blaugrunn sensed the serious atmosphere, he stopped making whimpering sounds, and Sea Bream finally spoke again.

“The power of the sea god must be dealt with using the power of the sea god… If the prince has such thoughts, it’s worth mentioning… Of course, if the prince were to step up on his own and then use the power of the sea god again… I cannot predict the aftermath of such a storm. Throughout the long history of Dragon Palace, there has never been such a case.”

The reason for Sea Bream’s dark expression while talking about the serpents!

“Kurelyuleuk!”

Drake.

While he listened to Sea Bream, Leeha realized that something unusual might happen to Drake, but for him, the safety of the other new continent expedition members was more important than Drake alone.

Leeha: Kijung! Go tell Captain Drake! There’s no one else to stop the serpents but him! If there’s any way, use that to protect

 Kijung: Cough, cough, eong-ah!

Leeha: … Please hurry up and tell him.

Leeha’s whisper to him made Kijung realize that three minutes had already passed on the deck of the New Serpent.

When Leeha whispered to Kijung, Kijung and the others had already succeeded in holding on for three minutes.

“Thank you, master Kay.”

Kijung staggered towards Drake in response.

“Hehe…”

Kijung’s darkened vision could no longer see anything, but he could still hear the sound.

Together with Drake’s voice, a cheerful achievement sound echoed- Pa-bam! (To be continued…)
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 “Svalt. Hupit.”

Shiaaaa–

The black and white serpent gleamed with radiance.

As Drake advanced towards them, blue light sparkled around his body. With each step toward the end of the deck, the light intensified.

“Step back.”

Shiaaaa!——–

The head of the black serpent twitched, just for a moment.

In an instant, its fangs flew towards Drake’s torso.

“Gyaaaah! Drake-!”

“I ordered you to step back. Svalt.”

The shocking roar made Shin Nara scream, and Kijung, who was surprised by the sound, hurriedly looked around. However, for Drake, the person directly involved, nothing happened. A simple command to step back. Although the eyes of the serpent were larger than Drake’s, it stared directly into Drake’s eyes who issued the command.

Ssh-shaah—.

The black serpent was frozen in mid-air, unable to move. And a surprising thing happened.

“Back away.”

When the blue light emanating from Drake’s body turned almost navy blue, the black serpent blinked its eyes and began to retract its head again.

“Hupit. You too, step back. I will not tolerate any further approach as the son of my father.”

Shiaaaa—

The white serpent was the same. As much as the distance the black serpent backed off, the white serpent also began to retract its body from the sea, spreading its tail along with the New Serpent.

“Hikit-! Hakut! What, what are you doing!”

“Attack, serpent-Taemul! Sink the ship immediately!”


The fishmen shouted from the water, but the serpents showed no response. Amidst the chaos, drake turned around and approached Kijung.

“Haaa… Haaa…”

“Are you okay?”

“Hehe, the achievement window too – Whoo, I can’t see it… Haaa.”

If one were to poke a hole in a black canvas with a needle and put it in front of your eyes, they would have a similar field of view as Kijung currently had. It meant almost nothing could be seen. Drake looked at him with pity as he struggled to regain his balance.

“Woah…”

Thud…

Kijung suddenly flinched at the touch behind his arm, but before he could react, drake had already pressed against Kijung’s shoulder.

“Be careful. Uh, just like that, move backward… slowly…”

With an impressed expression, drake supported Kijung and guided him to a safe place. Even the users of Kraven could not have seen Drake’s expression like this, or more precisely, it was not just about the expression. When the blue light started to fade, the users of Blue Marlin were too far away to see how Drake’s face, his hands, and his legs were changing, and Kijung’s view was obstructed.

By the time Kijung leaned against the mainmast, drake was quite far from his human appearance.

“This must also be destiny. Perhaps I also entrusted my determination to you…” If it weren’t for the sword, Kijung would undoubtedly have died. In that case, drake would not have completed his ‘transformation’, and the black and white serpent would not have followed his orders. In other words, drake himself could have died. Because Kijung succeeded, drake was also able to survive. Drake believed it was almost impossible to withstand the attacks of Svalt and Hupit, the black and the white serpent for three minutes. But Kijung did it.

Nevertheless, Kijung could not accurately understand the way Drake’s eyes were looking at him and his voice was complex and nuanced, whether happy or sad. This is because Kijung had not yet seen Drake’s ‘appearance’. Two factors Drake couldn’t have imagined were at play here: the legendary sword given by Leeha and Kijung’s ability to maximize the sword’s power.

“Now leave it to me. Because of my promise with ‘My King’… I won’t be able to see humans again after this.”

Drake, who had been staring at Kijung, who had become a mess, for a while, finally made up his mind. Even though Kijung couldn’t see properly, he could feel the strength in Drake’s voice.

“Captain…?”

“Open your mouth.”

“What? Uh—gulp!”

Before Kijung could ask anything, drake grabbed Kijung’s cheek. Kijung was shocked by the ‘cold’ sensation touching his cheek, but he couldn’t resist.

Suddenly, something dropped into Kijung’s mouth with a thud, a sensation that wouldn’t be strange even if he struggled. Feeling like he was about to vomit, Kijung, nevertheless, kept his mouth open and received that ‘something.’


“Swallow it.”

Gulp…

“Hack, huh, even if you didn’t tell me to swallow, it would have been swallowed—um?”

Kijung’s darkened vision as if a dim canvas had been laid out in front of him suddenly brightened. As a tanker, he couldn’t be unaware of the complete recovery of his HP. Even Saint Raphaella couldn’t restore his HP in such a short time. The ecstatic smile that appeared on Kijung’s lips was only natural.

“Wow! What kind of recovery is this—iiiiiiiiiiii—?!”

Papapapapa!

However, that smile didn’t last long. As soon as Kijung saw Drake in front of him, he quickly crawled backward like an insect. He had no choice. Kijung had mistakenly thought that the being in front of him was a monster.

“Mermaid?! No, merman—no, mermaid? Merman? No… Captain Drake?”

What Kijung saw was Drake. Drake, who had discarded his human form, the son of the sea god, a water spirit, and a member of the Undine tribe, ‘merman’ Drake.

“Hakiiiiit, haquuuuuut—!”

Pata, pata!

The threats and coercion against the serpents were in vain. Now, the only option left for them was to take action themselves. They began to leap onto the deck of the New Serpent’s ship simultaneously.

The humans were momentarily confused when they saw the transformed Drake, but by the time their numbers increased to ten, fifteen, all hesitation disappeared.

“Hackin’ merman?! No, mermaid—Hack, haqu—merman—”

“Hack, hack! Looks different! If it’s a mermaid, it has low combat abilities—”

“Hack! Hack!”

When the humans armed themselves and rushed toward the deck, drake, who had been looking at Kijung with a pitiful gaze, stood up from his place.

His appearance was certainly different from an ordinary ‘mermaid.’

‘Anderson and Sea Bream were real mermaids. Upper body human, lower body fish. These monster fishmen just have a grotesque appearance with human arms and legs attached to a fish body… But Drake is—’

Was this what it meant to be the ‘son of the sea god’? Initially surprised, Kijung could feel it once he regained his composure. Drake still wore human clothes, and he also wore the ‘captain’ hat of the New Serpent. Both his upper and lower bodies were those of a human. It wasn’t a mix of human and fish like the mermaids.


Although he had a physique identical to a human, his skin was covered with fish scales, protruding slightly with the back of a luxurious coat fluttering. The tail-like thing that slightly protruded resembled a tailfin but was somewhat unsettling. However, it exuded a kind of dignity, combined with the scaly and inhuman appearance, and surprisingly complemented his human-like physique.

And the ‘children of the sea’ were not just an external peculiarity.

“Hakikikikiki—”

Um,

“Get lost, contaminated impurities. 『Hydro Cutter』.”

He didn’t draw a sword. The casting time wasn’t particularly long. He simply swung his right arm diagonally, and a white jet stream spouted from Drake’s hand.

“Ha—”

“Splut.”

It was a kind of sword. A high-pressure water blade that could cut through the strongest steel rail, and Drake, who was rushing towards the mermaids, cut them all into pieces like a fishmonger in a traditional fish market.

“…Huh…”

Kijung remembered the first time he fought against the fishmen. Even the axe wielded by the barbarian hero’s descendant couldn’t cut them to pieces. The scales of the mermaids were tougher than expected, possessing strength surpassing that of golems.

‘But… they’re completely in pieces?’ Users on the Blue Marlin began to realize what had transpired on the New Serpent, but it wasn’t the only surprising thing.

“Svalt. Hüpit.”

Drake’s voice was very soft, but the entities he called understood his call.

“No way…”

“Look over there!”

『History Rewritten: Going back to that moment.』

Kijung, Shin Nara, and even Bailephus, who were dealing with the krakens, completely understood the situation.

Shiiiiing!

The serpents approached the deck of the New Serpent, brandishing their heads because of their last command from Drake. The conclusion of the situation came with Drake’s final order.

“Clean up all the impurities in the sea.”

Shaahhhhh————-

When the black serpent Svalt and the white serpent Hüpit began to move, there was no longer any presence that could stop them.

“Hakiiiiit-!”

“Hakhet, hakhet- The serpents are out of control!”

“The control mage is dead! Run- Haquuut-! Run-”

Tail-whipping, biting, throwing, paralysis that froze in place, dispelling the magic of the mermaids—

“What… is this, really.”

Realizing that he was now looking at the attacks that were directed toward him just a few moments ago, Kijung couldn’t help but feel a bitter-sweet emotion. With the black and white serpent joining the battle, the krakens that were running away in the sea were no longer obstacles.

Among a hundred fishmen and fourteen krakens that fled to survive, not even ten were left. It had only been twenty minutes since Drake, the ‘son of the sea god’, had revealed his majesty.

On the deck of the New Serpent, all the users of the Blue Marlin and the New Serpent had gathered. It wasn’t just a mere happening that, as soon as he came out of the cabin, Kijung’s name was called, and Bobae was about to burst into tears, looking at him with a face that seemed to express a mix of joy and indescribable emotions.

“…Captain Drake?”

“What the heck is this, again?”

The users couldn’t comprehend Drake’s appearance, which was neither human nor mermaid.

“Now what… should we do?”

Someone asked, but no one could answer.

The users’ eyes began to gather on the leader of the New Continent Expedition, Alexander. Feeling the gazes focused on him, Alexander looked at Drake and asked.

“What do you want to do, drake?”

“Anything. In this crisis, you saved us, drake.”

“That’s right, ‘son of the sea god.’ The serpents waiting there also follow your orders, don’t they?”

Following Alexander, Bailephus also spoke.

The users’ expectations rose a bit. If those serpents joined them, there would be nothing to fear from the fishmen and others in the future!

“I can’t join you.”

“Why is that?”

“I promised to be with humans only when I’m human.”

“What is this about?”

“That is my contract with my king. Please convey my apologies.”

Drake looked at Alexander and Baelifus once and then averted his gaze. What was caught in his eyes was still another NPC holding the wheel on the Blue Marlin. Burke didn’t look at Drake, and he didn’t ask him any questions. That aspect made Drake’s expression melancholic.

(To be continued…)
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 “However… if Captain Drake were to stay with us-”

“I’m sorry. You won’t see me again. However, these clothes will be necessary for ‘your’ journey. I’ll leave them behind.”

Shin Nara tried to hold onto him, but he didn’t listen. Fibiel, minis, and figures from any nation couldn’t hold the current Drake back. Drake turned towards the serpents. Was it necessary to send him away like this?

‘He is an incredible power… Can’t anyone stop him? Well, even if I had a better view, it would be nice to at least bid him farewell.’

Amidst this, Chiyou’s head was turning quickly, but she, too, couldn’t conspicuously step forward in this situation. Sending off Drake as he became more distant, Kijung was the one who raised a hand to say goodbye.

“Captain!”

“Master Kay.”

Drake half-turned to look at Kijung. Many thoughts and words in Kijung’s mind were coming and going, disappearing. What should he say? Should he ask him to stay? Why did he have to leave? Should he at least ask where he’s going? But Drake, who made a resolution that Kijung alone seemed to hear, responded by simply raising his head slightly and bowing.

“Thank you for saving me.”

Expressing gratitude was the best Kijung could do. Drake responded by lifting his hat once while looking at Kijung. The mermaid, who left a clear impact with just one appearance, left with the serpents. As they plunged into the sea, the users made bitter expressions.

At the end of the deck, only the coat he wore was left.

“… It would have been nice if he had joined us until the end of the expedition.”

“There’s nothing harder than convincing someone who can’t be convinced. It might have been impossible.”

“Then where is Captain Drake going now?”

“Perhaps to the Dragon Palace?”

“Really? When he talked to Sea Bream, he said, ‘I came out on my own.'”

“I think the same. For reasons unknown, he became human to escape from the sea god. He probably won’t return to the Dragon Palace now.”

“But the Dragon Palace is in chaos now. The sea god is contaminated too. Maybe he wants to go back and do something?”

“No, I think the opposite. If the Dragon Palace is a mess, and the sea god is contaminated… it means it’s dangerous. So, wouldn’t he be even less likely to go back?”

The departure of Drake had a significant impact on the New Continent Expedition team. The users were pondering each of his words, trying to find any hint that might help them.


“Damn it, let’s not cling to someone who’s already left! That’s not the issue now! What about the storm? Who’s going to lead the New Serpent’s ship? We did manage to catch the Giant Albatross for some extra provisions, but we still can’t afford to hesitate!”

“Yeah, and if the fishmen find out that Captain Drake and the serpents left, they’ll definitely come again. There are those who escaped without us being able to kill them.”

Hook and Fernand summarized the situation. All the users, who had been whispering, fell silent. The one who left had left. Those who were still here had their own navigation schedules, and there was no room to pay attention to Drake’s whereabouts.

“Even if he has skills, we don’t have anyone to use them for now… In the end, we need Ha Leeha for this.”

Kijung sighed, and in a hushed voice, he muttered about the skill window. The reason for the silence was that he had been checking the achievement window. Challenging something impossible for a human to endure had its worth.

“Master Kay? Seriously, an achievement?”

“Oh, yes. I just received an achievement. Haha.”

Kijung laughed proudly, scratching his head. The reason for the silence until now was that he had been checking the achievement window!

“Kijung? Don’t tell me… an achievement…”

“Leeha hyung is really greedy. He should have told me earlier if he had an achievement like this. I’ll let you know later, Bobae-ssi. No, Leeha hyung probably doesn’t have my other achievement.”

『Recognized by the Sea God』, a skill for breathing underwater, and another achievement related to Drake, as well as another achievement for enduring something while being hit by the serpents. Kijung received three achievements in exchange for his life, and the effects of these three achievements were beyond Kijung’s imagination.

“The mana consumption is no joke. Let me use it by squeezing out as much mana as possible. But even if I use it once, I probably won’t be able to use it for a while.”

Kijung checked the skill after putting on Drake’s coat. The mana consumption of 『Perfect Storm』 was at a level where a regular tanker could use it several times. Using it to the maximum was impossible, and even if he used it just enough for two ships to pass by, Kijung’s total MP wouldn’t allow him to use it several times a day.

“It’s better than nothing! Let’s use it once and think about it!”

“Yeah, and in the case of mana… I’ll give you mine.”

“Huh?”

“The exchange rate is bad, so I usually don’t use skills like this… but if it’s Master Kay, I’d be happy to give it to you.”

While Hook was urging Kijung, another person stepped forward from the users’ group. It was Saint Raphaella.

Looking somewhat embarrassed, she glanced at Kijung, lowering her head shyly whenever their eyes met. Surprisingly, it wasn’t Kijung who was confused but Bobaee..

“What, what’s that, raphaella-ssi?”


“Huh? No, just… I find him reliable.”

“Who? Kijung? No! Reliable? Seriously, he’s completely unreliable!”

“Well, raphaella-ssi?”

“No, um… just… he seems trustworthy.”

“Who says that? Kijung-ssi? No, master Kay-ssi? No! Trustworthy? What!”

“Oh, Bobae-ssi?”

“No, uh, well, I mean…”

What did Raphaella’s actions mean? Bobae was confused, and her intentions didn’t work out as planned.

“Alright, then let’s leave the support for Master Kay to Raphaella. Everyone, return to your ships. Head towards the center at the highest speed before the fishmen arrive. Fernand, hook! Operate the New Serpent.”

“Got it.”

“Damn, I knew it would come to this. We should have sent only one person from our country on the Blue Marlin.”

Hook took the helm himself. Without Drake, it would require extraordinary efforts to chase the Blue Marlin with the New Serpent’s ship.

“Are you ready? Let’s go! The range of 『Perfect Storm』 is… about this much?!”

Aaaaaah——–!

With Kijung’s skill activation, the clouds above their heads disappeared, and the two ships accelerated once again. From the entry into the Dragon Palace’s territory, where various incidents involving serpents, krakens, mermaids, and the son of the sea god had unfolded, it had been 8 days, and the overall navigation period, based on Kraven’s Harbor, was now on the 53rd day.

****

“Gororororo?”

“It’s fine. Since we’ve heard the news that the prince has returned, we can’t afford such luxury.”

“Gorororo…”

Drake only became a merman; it’s not like he’s returning to the Dragon Palace, but he didn’t want to repeat the same conversation multiple times.


About 10 days into the initial movement according to Middle Earth’s time, followed by a day of rest, and now, the second forced march had already passed 7 days. In other words, 63 days had passed in total, and it was the 18th day since entering the Dragon Palace’s territory, 10 days since the chaos erupted on the sea surface.

‘I can’t believe Drake became a mermaid. Seriously. Anyway, that ajussi has a talent for surprising people.’

Even while being carried by the mermaids, Leeha could confirm the details of the incident from various perspectives. Not only Kijung but also Shin Nara, Bobae, Kidd, Luger, fernand, and others had shared the story with Leeha.

“Hehe, that Kijung… boasting like that, and then, ugh.”

Leeha suddenly remembered Kijung’s excited voice that was sending whispers of excitement. After putting on the coat he received from Drake, he had become a central figure in the expedition, somehow.

Of course, it wasn’t just because of the role of erasing the storm. The treatment towards Kijung had changed because his remarkable achievements had left a deep impression on both the users of the Blue Marlin and the New Serpent. However, the main character, Kijung, was still unaware of this.

“Well, two other achievements are envy-worthy. If I had stayed… No, anyway, it would have been impossible since I can’t tank.”

Leeha muttered to himself about the acquisition conditions and effects of an achievement he had just mentioned. One of them was derived from Drake forcing him to drink water.

“A+ grade achievement, 『Let’s drink! Essence of the Water Spirit!』… literally means drinking the essence, right? Hmm, thinking about how that essence was ‘squeezed out’ doesn’t make it very appetizing. Maybe it’s Drake’s sweat?”

Although imagining how that essence was obtained felt somewhat disgusting, considering its ability:

Even during normal battles, the naturally recovering amount of health was perceivable, and having a brief respite between battles practically allowed for the recovery of all health. It granted an incredible ability: +300% HP and MP recovery speed outside of combat, and +50% HP and MP recovery speed during combat.

‘This ability is insane, but there’s another S-grade achievement, 『A person who protects things more important than life』, right? I could never obtain such an achievement.’

To Leeha, is there nothing more important than life? No, that was not it. It’s because the conditions for obtaining the achievement were structured to be impossible for anyone other than a tanker class.

Kijung, who had invested a considerable amount of stats in ‘Health’, had a total HP slightly exceeding 50,000. However, during the battle in the Blue Marlin, his total HP, “inflated” by various health buffs from Raphaella and the Taoist brothers, was approximately 78,000.

“But the achievement’s acquisition condition is something like ‘Without receiving external health recovery, survive an attack of over 150,000 damage in a single battle’… Crazy, right? Anyway, who could do that?”

Even for the usual Kijung, it would have been impossible. With the buffs of Saint Raphaella, the raised health didn’t even reach 80,000, and he had to survive nearly twice that amount of damage.

The only reason he could achieve this feat was that Leeha had handed him a legendary-ranked sword, which had a -40% damage reduction for melee attacks. Although the total attack amount exceeded 150,000, when considering the shield and ‘damage reduction’, the actual damage Kijung suffered was approximately 77,000. It might have been closer to 77,900, given the situation where he claimed he could hardly see at all.

Not only the legendary-ranked sword but also the shield Kijung originally carried had a damage reduction effect. Together with Kijung’s ‘talent’, he managed to withstand it miraculously!

“With a total HP of 6,000… surviving 150,000, is unthinkable.”

Kijung mentioned that he was the first to achieve it. This meant that not only the top 10 tanks but also any outsider famous for tanking couldn’t accomplish this achievement.

“It’s not just that I can’t endure 150,000. Even a single healing during the battle would end it, so it’s impossible in regular hunting. Opportunities are limited, and the conditions are strict. It’s S-grade difficulty.”

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 423

				
 It was somewhat fortunate that Kijung led all the users into the cabin.

His consideration, ensuring that aggro doesn’t spike and other users don’t suffer damage, was a kind gesture that now served as compensation. If, for instance, when taking about 149,000 damage, raphaela had applied healing even once, all conditions would have been reset.

‘Considering this, Middle Earth is truly amazing. Why did they insert so many conditions to torment users like this? Despite that, it seems the game is popular… Perhaps the difficulty is what makes it appealing?’

Leeha looked up, exhaling bubbles. Nevertheless, he couldn’t help but wish the game would remain as relatively easy as it was now.

Leeha’s C-team, as well as A-team, which wasn’t pursued by the fishmen after Drake’s transformation into a merman, were smoothly advancing.

“It would be great if things could continue like this… The next week is crucial.”

The A-team would enter the central part of the Dragon Palace’s waters in just two more days. If nothing unexpected happened, Hyein’s B-team would start moving in earnest. And what about Leeha’s C-team?

Three days later, they would arrive near the Dragon Palace. After that, Leeha would have to log out, take a day of rest in reality, and then log back in to continue their journey.

『Kyukyu, kyukyu!』

Blaugrunn, who was held by Anderson, flapped his wings at that moment.

“Hey, are you trying to say something, blaugrun-nim? Did you detect something we didn’t detect?!”

“… He doesn’t like something, anderson. What’s there, dragon-nim?”

『Kyukyu, kyukyu!』

Hearing the urgent cry of the bronze dragon, Leeha’s expression began to harden.

What did it mean for Team C, Leeha, to be on the 18th day of entering the waters of the Dragon Palace?

From Leeha’s perspective, it meant that he had been logged in for about 48 hours, took a 5-hour break, and had been logged in again for approximately 36 hours.

It indicated an immense accumulation of mental fatigue.

After understanding Blaugrunn’s words, Leeha sighed.

“Kokok, kororok…”

There are fishmen.


Even with words only spouting bubbles, anderson and Sea Bream understood the situation by looking at Leeha’s expression.

“Sigh, then that’s how it is.”

Middle Earth wouldn’t let them off so easily.

『Kyukyu, kyukyu!』

“We still can’t detect them in our detection range… What should we do, captain?”

“Our signals may have been detected by them. First, pay attention to the direction the dragon-nim is pointing and stop for a moment. Move together with the school of fish over there.”

“Understood!”

Anderson and Sea Bream, who were moving at high speed, slowed down and approached the surrounding school of fish.

If humans approached, the school of fish would scatter in an instant, but these were mermaids, water spirits, and members of the undine clan!

The fish gracefully swam, accepting the mermaids as part of their group.

“Do you understand through the ripples? I see. Moving together at this speed interprets us as just a part of the school of sea breams in the sonar detection of the fishmen.”

In a way, it was a camouflage tactic.

However, for Leeha, a sniper on land, it was a somewhat unfamiliar camouflage, closer to what a submarine could achieve.

“Kokok?”

Suddenly, Leeha felt a cool sensation on his neck.

A fish, only the size of Leeha’s palm, was poking, poking his neck. The sparkling eyes of the sea bream and Leeha’s eyes met for a moment.

“Well, the game is annoyingly difficult and all, but I can’t quit because of experiences like this.”

An experience different from traditional virtual reality games.

Freshness was stimulated by various sensations that were hard to experience in reality.

From practical chairs efficiently utilizing the time difference between Middle Earth and reality to users playing the game for a new and unique experience, there were many reasons why they couldn’t quit.


“Ah! I detected them! They’re over there.”

“Already?”

“Huh? Oh… yes.”

Sea Bream looked at Anderson with surprised eyes.

With a much smaller size and a cute face that might not be trusted in battle, he had the ability to detect enemies equal to or even surpass Sea Bream.

“Well, indeed… With that ability, if you add speed, you could survive alone.”

“Huh?”

“Never mind… How many enemies?”

“There are three. No other marine life around, just three fishmen swimming. But the direction… the direction is… it’s this way. If we stay still like this, we might meet them!”

After hearing Anderson’s words, sea Bream closed her mouth for a moment. The Captain of the Sea God’s Guard also frowned as he detected the enemies.

“Oh no. There’s no suitable place nearby to hide.”

“They are more agile and accurate than expected. It’s been about 6 minutes since they started moving! Do they perhaps know we’re here?”

There was nowhere to move. Moreover, in the vast sea, which wasn’t just limited to the cardinal directions but extended to the vertical axis as well, it was unfortunate that the enemies were approaching from this direction, making it seem like they knew the whereabouts of Leeha and his party.

『Kyukyu, kyukyu…』

The still-winged Blaugrunn, embraced by Anderson, looked at Leeha. While observing the uneasy dragon, Leeha had different thoughts.

“Maybe this is a fortunate turn of events. Three fishmen, they are undoubtedly scouts or patrols. If they know we’re here, they’ll rush at full speed. They still don’t know… yet.”

Unlike Anderson’s fuss, Leeha remained calm.

If the mermaids still didn’t know about them, it could be an opportunity.

Leeha: Let’s move along with the sea breams’ flow.

“Do you have a play?”


“Kokok.”

Leeha nodded. Strictly speaking, he hadn’t properly fought against fishmen yet. Perhaps, using Black Bass underwater might not be impossible.

Leeha: Sea Bream-nim, how many mermaids can you handle?

“Three would be too much.”

Leeha: What about two?

Sea Bream nodded, but his expression wasn’t bright. Even if he faced two, there was still one more remaining. It was too risky to believe that Anderson or Leeha would handle that.

“Can you do it? If you trust Anderson, I’d rather-”

Leeha: If Anderson-ssi has something to suggest… But I can’t just play around. Let’s try. Let’s lure them and, if possible, kill them.

As they approached the vicinity of the Dragon Palace, the probability of encountering these creatures would increase. So, now might be the opportunity.

A chance to experience a very practical test.

Leeha carefully opened a waterproof bag and took out an item from inside.

“They’re approaching. About 3 minutes and 30 seconds now. Be careful with your words, high Guard. Their breathing is different from the jellyfish friends, so you might get caught.”

With Anderson’s final warning, something else in the distance came into Leeha’s view.

With human-like arms and stationary legs, only the fish’s body moved as three mermaids swam closer.

Their bone-like harpoons held in their hands looked sharp even underwater.

The movement of the jellyfish herd became faster and more intense. Hiding within the herd was an appropriate choice for Sea Bream and Anderson.

Unlike other fish that would scatter or flee when enemies appeared, jellyfish herds became more cohesive, moving together.

It’s like their gathering is a disguise, making them look like a single living entity.

“But the sharks know about that and swallow them all at once, right?”

Suddenly, a scene from the documentary came to mind. Suddenly, these jellyfish seemed a bit pitiful, but it was fortunate that it allowed them to hide even better.

In the swirling mass of jellyfish, Leeha, anderson, and Sea Bream clearly spotted the three mermaids.

“Captain!”

“Not yet—draw them in a little more. Anderson, you take care of the left one.”

Listening to Anderson and Sea Bream’s conversation, Leeha also prepared. What was the purpose of these three mermaids? Their eyes were rolling in a way that clearly revealed Leeha’s position.

“Hacket, it’s food.”

“Homut, hakut. Just bring the kraken here, and it’ll be fed.”

“Hacket! Go back—”

『Bubble Shoot』

『Bubble Shoot』!”

And finally, when they approached, sea Bream and Anderson used their skills. Clusters of bubbles shot from the mermaids’ hands were instantly sucked into the mermaids’ mouths.

What was surprising came next. Leeha, who didn’t know how their skill mechanics worked, witnessed a somewhat ridiculous scene.

“Hakyuep!”

“Kiip, kiieep—!”

Two fishmen were upside down, struggling and slowly, gradually floating up.

“Koktok?”

What’s that? There was no time to question.

“Now, Ha Leeha-nim! The duration isn’t long, so hurry!”

Sea Bream quickly swam out and began dealing with the disarmed mermaid while Anderson engaged the other still-armed one.

“Kokrok, koktok!”

Leeha swam towards the last fishman without getting help from anyone. However, he couldn’t attack the fishman who were upside down and screaming without understanding what had happened to them.

『Kyukyu! Kyukyu!』

“Just attack, Ha Leeha-nim! The air we fed them is making them float! We can’t make them sink because we can’t control the buoyancy! Just kill them, they won’t be able to find their balance flipped like that!”

Hearing Anderson shout from behind, Leeha understood. The brutally realistic Middle Earth also revealed its true nature even in a place like this.

“Is that a method—because they are fish, are they susceptible to being eaten? Good! Then I can’t just stand still!”

Fishmen were said to be more aggressive than mermaids and had excellent basic physical combat abilities. Although Sea Bream, being of the Sea God Guard Commander level, could quickly kill one mermaid, the other would likely recover before that.

What Sea Bream and Anderson hoped for was to neutralize at least one of the remaining two mermaids before that happened, and Leeha was confident in accomplishing that task.

“Kokororok, buggurrug!”

Leeha reached into his bag and pulled out a black stick slightly longer than a wand.

『Kyukyu! Kyuuuuuung!』

Leeha: Haha, blaugrun-ssi! That’s why you should hurry up and become an adult! That way, we won’t have to deal with making more of these!”

Underwater, even Black Bass turned into a useless lump of metal. What other weapons remained? Would he use the flame thrower? That was unreasonable too. Unless it was the skill level of the flame sorcerer Pyro, it was impossible to surpass seawater with flames underwater.

“If I didn’t have this weapon in the first place, I wouldn’t have volunteered for the mermaid quest!”

He had never used it before. He kept it as one of the last resorts for ‘self-defense.’

However, what could Leeha’s stick with no decorations do?

“Hacket! Humans—chase!”

“Inae, hamut! Brought a human! The surface’s hakut, came down!”

Even the struggling fishmen noticed Leeha. Their actions, wielding weapons and limbs, were somewhat threatening, but they couldn’t move properly, so Leeha, with somewhat lacking swimming skills, could easily avoid them.

『Kyukyu!』

Blaugrunn cheered for Leeha. Understandably so, as what Leeha was holding was another ‘item’ from ‘him.’

Before being reborn using the Easter Egg, when he was a bronze dragon of the Adult-class, blaugrun gave him two dragon scales. One was used to craft a flamethrower, but the other?

(To be continued…)
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 ‘And dragon scales contain the unique energy of each dragon’s breath! In other words, what’s stored in these scales is the power of a breath! The one remaining that I made is this!’

Due to being weak in close combat, Leeha created this item to compensate for that weakness!

“I’ll make good use of it, blaugrun-ssi! Activate the 『Force Barrier』 and switch ON!”

Leeha activated a skill to protect himself and extended the stick toward the mermaid.

A bright blue spark flashed from the end of the short stick, where Blaugrunn’s scale was attached.

“Wahaha-ha! Get ready to be zapped, you fishman bastard! Even in regular fishing, the most intense thing is electric fishing using batteries!”

Crackling——– Crackling

“Hakiiiiit!”

“Hakkyuut, hakook! Cok!”

It was rudimentary but by no means weak Middle Earth’s first 『Electric Shock Device』.

The mermaid panicked and thrashed in response to the lightning-like discharge of electrical energy.

But that was all.

“…Hakkit?”

The unharmed mermaids seemed perfectly fine.

“Huh? Bu, bugeureureureuk……”

Huh? No, that can’t be.

Leeha once again switched the device off and then extended it towards the mermaids, turning it back on.

Pachit, pachachacha——–!

With sparks, the electrical energy spewed out, and Leeha could clearly feel the tingling sensation of the strong voltage penetrating through the 『Force Barrier』!

“Woah, the voltage is strong enough to penetrate through the 『Force Barrier』! Clearly, electricity is being discharged, but-”


Even though the Bottleneck had safety measures, there was an incredibly strong brain energy that could be felt by Leeha, the user. But why were the mermaids unharmed?

It was an unbelievable scene for Leeha.

He was well aware that using just a car battery could catch a wide range of river fish.

“No matter how vast the sea is, shouldn’t the current reach that far?”

Leeha was unaware of one fact.

The fact that electric fishing works only in freshwater.

As monsters, mermaids had a body structure similar to fish, allowing Middle Earth to flip them over and make them float using magic that forcibly inserted air into their bladders.

Therefore, it was natural to implement the difference in electrical conductivity between freshwater and saltwater, considering that freshwater had a higher electrical conductivity than seawater. Fish have higher electrical conductivity and lower resistance in freshwater compared to seawater. Electricity naturally flowed towards places with higher electrical conductivity.

In other words, if one electrified freshwater, the electricity would be directed towards fish with higher electrical conductivity and lower resistance. However, in the sea?

Fish, which were once conductive in freshwater, would become a ‘strong resistance body’ in seawater, causing the electricity to flow away!

This meant that the electric energy generated with Blaugrunn’s scale would simply vanish, heading towards the vast ocean, avoiding the mermaids’ bodies.

‘Huh? Huh-? Why?’

Although Leeha was still unaware of such facts, the bodies of the mermaids, who had been floating around in a daze, gradually began to right themselves.

The duration of the Bubble Shoot was coming to an end.

“Ha-Ha Leeha! What are you doing?! The fishmen will return to normal soon!”

“Korok, kororok, kororok…”

Leeha: I know that too… Wait, something’s strange, what is this? Surely, I recall – Kijung said that Lee Jiwon used an enormous lightning magic to burn and kill the mermaids.”

Leeha was familiar with the situation at that time. Although he had never used the item 『Electric Shock Device』 before, he had subtly believed in its effectiveness while moving underwater.

However, the current situation was different from back then.

Lee Jiwon had collected over ten rounds of energy by using his own sword as a lightning rod and then discharged it toward the mermaids in the underwater environment. The situation was quite different from what Leeha was experiencing now.


Lee Jiwon had gathered a massive amount of energy before releasing it, and the compressed voltage and heat were immense. If Blaugrunn had transformed into the dragon form and breathed out a breath, it might have been somewhat similar.

However, that wasn’t the case now. The electrical energy coming from just one scale of the dragon was somewhat insufficient to exert force underwater.

‘Why isn’t it working? Did Bottleneck-ssi mess up when making it? Turn it on again! On! On!’

Pachit, patchatsuchu…

Of course, those who didn’t know the difference could only feel awkward looking at the large electric shock device Leeha was holding.

Why? Why isn’t the electricity shooting out? Oh, in fact, the voltage he felt from holding it was enough to make him shudder, so why were the mermaids fine?

“No, this- Hey, Bottleneck-ssi! Did you really make this like you made the flamethrower?”

If Bottleneck heard this, how unfair would he feel? But now, there was no time to think about such things. Blaugrunn, who had been clinging to Anderson, shouted towards Leeha.

『Kyuuut, kyuuut!』

“Hakit, haquuuut-! Human, I don’t know what you’re up to, but I’ll kill you!”

“Haquk, revenge! I won’t forgive you for fleeing down from the surface! Hakit! You won’t be lonely because your comrades on the surface will soon die too!”

The fishmen, who had been completely flipped over and disoriented, were now back on track. With just a few flicks of their tail fins, they rapidly accelerated and started closing in on Leeha.

“Buggrrr!”

Leeha frantically swam away from the fishmen, but there was no way for a human and a fish to compete in a speed race underwater. The fishmen swiftly caught up, raising bone weapons behind Leeha.

“Ingaaaaah-”

“Grrrrrr!”

Why did they say this?!

In a desperate attempt to avoid fatal strikes, Leeha glanced backward, and a shadow that blocked his view suddenly appeared.

“Dirty impurities, get out of the way!”

“Kkororok!”


Thud!

Sea Bream killed one fishman and protected Leeha’s back!

The sound of bone weapons clashing underwater was dull and faint.

“Hakik! Commander of the Sea God’s Guard! Hukut, the Sea God is on our side!”

“Kutkut, you’re also a mermaid! Hakkot! A subordinate of the fishman! Hakik!”

“Don’t treat me like you fish heads. I am the king of the Undine tribe, born as the water spirit to protect the sea god.”

“Haququk, ‘Born as the chaser of the king of the Hakit tribe’.”

“Hakikit, hakit!”

Sea Bream confronted them with a stern expression, but the fishmen faced him, mocking without any fear. Sea Bream wanted to kill them on the spot, but he still had many questions to ask.

“What kind of trick did you use? How did you turn the Sea God into your side? How did you create a manipulator?!”

Of course, they wouldn’t answer, but Sea Bream had to ask.

Facing two mermaids and one human, with a dragon at the side, the two fishmen showed no signs of fear. They were well aware that, despite their numbers, only one of them could engage in actual combat.

“What method did we use? If you want to know, become a fishman yourself. Hakit!”

Swooosh!

The fishmen disappeared into the water without showing any fear in the face of Sea Bream, the dragon, and the others.

The fishmen confidently swam towards Sea Bream. In a typical scenario, an average fishman would never win in a 1:2 fight against fishmen.

The fishmen’s confidence stemmed from the fact that they had an advantage in this situation.

“Really, this… It’s like the heavens helped, no, should I say the sea helped?”

Fortunately for the group led by Leeha, it was a stroke of luck. The misfortune of the fishmen was having to face an underwater battle against the Sea God’s Guard Captain.

Although the fishmen underestimated them, as Sea Bream confidently stated, he had enough skill to handle at least two fishmen. The underwater combat was fundamentally different from land battles. Sea Bream adeptly maneuvered between the fishmen’s “lower” and “upper” sides, exploiting their vulnerabilities.

Despite the fishmen being swift and powerful underwater creatures, the name of the Sea God’s Guardian Captain carried significant weight.

“Hop!”

Sea Bream swiftly evaded the attack of one fishman, then swung his bone weapon.

Zziik-!

The sharp weapon was more than enough to tear through the fishman’s gills down to its belly.

“Hakiiii…”

Looking at the fish innards flowing out into the seawater, Leeha closed his mouth. Sea Bream didn’t stop there. When another confused fishman attempted a feeble attack, he swiftly severed the creature’s arms, legs, and tail in retaliation. The aquatic swordsmanship of the Guard Captain was exceptional, rendering the fishman unable to escape while disassembling it completely in front of everyone, spilling its entrails and appendages. Sea Bream skillfully tossed the dismantled parts into the surrounding school of anchovies, which approached and began pecking at them.

“If the purpose of doing this is…”

Leeha vaguely sensed Sea Bream’s intention. He seemed to want to obtain information from the fishmen. However, as for the fish…

“It has no senses. With things like pain, it won’t be able to provide any information.”

Although the fishman was still alive, he couldn’t escape. Despite this, sea Bream continued to strip away the flesh, tearing apart the entrails, and tossing them to the nearby fish. The visual horror and cruelty stimulated the imagination. Sea Bream, with his role as the “High Priest’s Guard”, seemed to be an NPC worthy of such a position.

“After uuuu…”

After a while, sea Bream, with a bone weapon hung on his shoulder, approached the still-living fishman and asked again.

“I’ll ask you once more. Where is the Sea God? How many of you are there? What’s the current state of the Dragon Palace? What’s the alert situation?”

“Hakiiit, hakyu… We don’t know where… Hakit… the Sea God is. There is no way for us fishmen to resist Hakit…”

There was no way for the fishman to resist. Afterward, Leeha relayed all the information the fishman shared with Team A about the underwater surface.

Of course, in the meantime, I didn’t miss the keyword the fishman subtly mentioned earlier.

Leeha: Kijung, there might be another fishmen attack. They said, ‘Kill all the comrades in the surface.'”

Kijung: What? Again? Damn it, does Captain Drake notice that she’s gone… Anyway, got it, hyung! Thanks!”

“Ha Leeha-nim! Snap out of it!”

“… Huk!”

Leeha let out a groan, tilting my head while releasing bubbles. Gathering information from the fishmen, taking breaks, and resuming the forced march had taken another half a day.

“Did I doze off for a moment? Phew, the atmosphere feels dreamy, making me even sleepier. Snuggling with Sea Bream is getting more tiring.”

Still embraced by Sea Bream, Leeha surveyed the surroundings. It was a slightly different atmosphere from the dark sea until yesterday. Depending on the depth, it varied a bit, but rocks emitting light were embedded underwater, serving as markers guiding the way to the Dragon Palace.

‘In about another day and a half, we’ll reach the vicinity of the Dragon Palace. We’re almost there.’

After that, Leeha would log out again, sleep for about five real-world hours, and log in once more for the final battle.

Being carried comfortably by Sea Bream indicated that fatigue had accumulated to the point where he could doze off. After checking the time and the friend list, Leeha sent a whisper to Kijung.

Leeha: Kijung, do you see it?

Due to the break time when he logged out, they hadn’t approached the vicinity of the Dragon Palace in the past 19 days and a half, but what about Team A?

While users might have rotated in and out during the log-out rotation, the ship itself continued to advance. This meant that now, it was time to see the ‘buoy’ erected at the center of the Dragon Palace’s waters, the focal point of the Sea of Dawn, and the manifestation of the Sea God’s power!

Kijung: Not yet. Fernand-nim is still inspecting with the telescope—oh, oh, oh! There it is! No, he said he sees it!

Leeha: Can you see it? The island?

Kijung: Just a moment… Oh, oh! I see it, hyung! It’s big! It’s not a joke; it’s enormous!

Leeha: Is it big enough to build a Mana Relay Tower?

Kijung: It’s more than that! What kind of island… That must be why Fernand must have mistaken it for a continent. It’s huge. Big enough. Hyein-nim is already preparing.

Listening to Kijung’s whisper, Leeha could finally let out a sigh of relief.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha: Okay, okay, that’s good. Please remind Hyerin about the 100-hour time limit.

Kijung: Don’t worry. Hyein-nim knows about these things better. Don’t worry. What about hyung? Will you arrive at the Dragon Palace tomorrow?

Leeha: We should arrive either close to midnight tomorrow or the day after. I have to log out briefly there.

Kijung: It’s tough, really. Why do you have to go through all this trouble, you foolish thing?

Leeha: Tsk, what else can I do? There’s no one else to do it… No one else.

.

Leeha felt a bitter aftertaste. Surely, he had thought that way only when he volunteered.

‘There seems to be no one else but me. With underwater breathing and believing in the invincible weapon 『Electric Shock Device』..’

Kijung: Huh? Why? What’s wrong?

Leeha: No, nothing. Just be careful of the fishmen.

Kijung: Okay. By the way, Rubini-nim reported that the kraken appeared on the map again. The fishmen won’t stop bothering us. Quickly resolve the purification pool, hyung! They keep respawning, so killing them doesn’t end.

Leeha: Got it. Don’t worry, just wait. It’ll be over soon.

Kijung: Okay, hyung!

Leeha cut off the whisper with Kijung and let out a sigh.

He believed in the electric shock device made from Blaugrunn’s scales so much.

However, it turned out that it didn’t work in the sea after several more experiments, and now he fully understood the situation. While it wasn’t completely useless, the practical result was essentially as good as useless.

‘To achieve the effect, I have to… be in close combat. But that’s crazy. Do I have to fight in close quarters with a stick-like electric shock device? If I were a sniper?’

Although Leeha wished for area-of-effect damage from the water, the situation was no different from the thin stick-like electric shock device. It was more dangerous than close-quarters combat with a blade. Even for fishmen, it wasn’t easy to handle 1:1. The physical abilities of the fishmen were such that one needed to be at the level of the Commander of the Maritime Guard to capture them.

The reason Team A could handle the fishmen was because it was in the sea. But what if it were underwater? It would be difficult to expect the same results.

Moreover, as someone who wasn’t even in the close combat category, it was absurd for me, ihawha, to approach the electric shock device close enough to touch the fishmen’s scales.


‘Even if I get close, there’s a problem. Using Force Barrier won’t prevent damage to me. The voltage is definitely not low. I didn’t know seawater would be such a big obstacle.’

Leeha’s hand touched the electric shock device. Despite Bottleneck carefully insulating it to prevent electricity from flowing, the current that flowed out into the seawater came back into Leeha’s hand, shocking him.

Seawater, with its high conductivity, acted as a shield for the fishmen and hindered Leeha. At this point, the electric shock device in the seawater was more like a weapon that tormented its user.

“But if I hesitated and approached slowly, I would be killed by the fishmen’s weapons. Damn it… What should I do now? I planned to solve everything with this electric shock…”

Thinking about pollutants or something, worrying about it felt like a luxury. The area around the purification pool was already guarded by fishmen. Passing through there was the first gate.

‘As predicted by Sea Bream-nim, there’s supposed to be the final defense line inside the Dragon Palace, but we can’t rely on the mermaids there. Eventually, we have to deal with it ourselves…’

The timing was unfortunate. If Blaugrunn-ssi could do even half of what juvenile-class can do—

『Kyuuu…』

“What, are you pretending to read my thoughts again? I’m not blaming Blaugrunn-ssi, so just grow quickly. Lately, you’ve been eating too much seaweed, and you’ve got a lot to say, huh? 『Kyu!』

In the challenging environment where even feeding was difficult for nearly 20 days, blaugrun didn’t disappear and held up well. Leeha was once again grateful for such a partner.

‘I have to make it through.’

Team A was progressing safely. Even with the appearance of fishmen and krakens, they would deal with it appropriately. The only reason for accepting the fishmen quest was to find a location to build the mana relay tower.

Already close to the destination, team A, in a calm manner, no longer needed Leeha.

“It’s not for someone else. I have to make it through for myself.”

In other words, the remaining trials were for Leeha himself!

Once again, Leeha began to think about a new pioneering plan, focusing on the challenges ahead.

It was also around that time when fishmen appeared in front of Team A.

“The kraken is larger and there are more of them than last time. Be careful!”

“These damn guys, ever since Hyaha mentioned it last time, they’ve been sneaky, sneaky scouting—”

Looking at the sea surface beyond the deck, Kijung muttered curses. When Team C, led by Leeha, faced three fishmen, the fishmen had come close to Team A’s vicinity.


Although Team A, who was already prepared upon hearing Leeha’s warning, was ready to counterattack, the fishmen did not charge.

They maintained a distance enough to be annoyingly worrying, observing them without rushing.

It was known that the fishmen were preparing for something, but there was no need for Team A to go so far as to turn the ship and catch them as a significant threat. Moreover, team A, who had no time to spare, ultimately decided to ignore them.

“Don’t tell me they were investigating the logout rotation!”

This was the result.

Alexander appeared with a large group of krakens at the time when he was caught in the logout rotation! Considering it just lucky timing was too much of an oversight regarding Middle Earth.

“Hey, that doesn’t make sense!”

“But it’s perfect. If it were any other time, Alexander wouldn’t be there, and Bailephus said he needed a break—”

“Now, no matter what happened, there’s no captain. We just have to face those fishmen bastards.”

Kidd, turning his revolver, spoke the truth.

Whether the fishmen had confirmed the logout rotation for each user, wasn’t important.

“I already told Bailephus-ssi! He’ll be out soon!”

The cheerful voice of the Shin Nara from the Blue Marlin echoed towards the users of the New Serpent. Hook also shouted at the same time.

“We’ll pass through the outskirts of the island! The closest point is in 40 minutes! Sage! Get ready!”

“Got it!”

Already, the New Serpent had materials, including NPCs, moved for the construction of the mana relay tower. Hyein began to draw magic circles around the carefully selected materials.

“All construction workers for the mana relay tower, please go inside! You must not come out!”

Since a considerable number of workers were giants of Shazrashian, the area to draw the magic circle was also large.

“Kraken approaching, about 2 minutes!”

“fishmen emerged on the surface! The number is—uh… many! Over a hundred—no, over a hundred and fifty?”


“Those damn bastards, this time, they mean business!”

『Size, number, and direction of the kraken.』

Aaaaaah——!

The gold dragon flapped its wings, hovering in the airspace above the New Serpent. Rubini quickly provided information to him.

“There are about four of them, around 50 meters in size. The rest are similar to the last time, around 30 meters, and their number is about ten. They are coming up from the underwater direction. In about 57 seconds, one of the 50-meter ones will come straight to the New Serpent!”

“Understood. Let’s block the multiple approaches first.”

Bailephus flew towards the direction Rubini pointed.

“If Bailephus takes care of the majority, then what about the one that pops up from under the ship?”

“In any case, the attack pattern of the kraken is to entwine the ship with its legs and pull it underwater after breaking it. The weak point is the forehead, but… for now, let’s focus on attacking the legs and reinforcing defense.”

“Let’s think positively! We don’t have to fight serpents this time! Leeha hyung will be near the Dragon Palace soon! Once the pool is purified, the fishmen won’t come out anymore! I need to defend, so I won’t be able to cast the perfect storm, and wind and rain will return, but… it’s manageable!”

Kijung clashed his shield and sword with the kraken’s leg, making a loud noise. If it were in the past, anyone might have come forward and given him orders, but now, within the New Continent expedition, Kijung’s stature had changed significantly.

The confidence given by Kijung’s sturdy back was solid.

“Waaaaaaahhhh—!”

Claaang, claaaang, claaaang!!!

At Kijung’s shout, the kraken’s legs rose to the surface.

The kraken’s legs, which were around 30 meters long, were already as thick as the main mast. Moreover, the legs of the kraken twice that size were…

“Hmm.. It seems a bit pretentious to just yell at it to come here, isn’t that so, Bobae-ssi?”

“Kek, you always add words that make other people lose their energy.『Electric Arrow』!”

“I’m just trying to ease the tension. Let’s go!”

The kraken’s cry made the sea surface vibrate. The vibration was so strong that it hurt the users’ eardrums and made the ship’s hull creak.

With that cry, the legs of the kraken began to fall toward the deck of the new serpent.

“Ka-Kay!”

“Don’t worry, keep drawing the magic circle, Hyein-hyungnim! 『Ahlo’s Guardian』, 『Guardian Saint’s Shield』 !”

It was too small to defend the kraken’s huge legs, but he was confident.

Beyond Kijung’s shield, a translucent green protective shield spread out as if covering the entire deck. It was the area of effect defense skill, 『Guardian Saint’s Shield』.

It was a skill that had a wide defense range but had low defense power. Baaaaang—!

It was so strong that the New Serpent’s anchor line plunged into the water and was subjected to a powerful pressure enough to make it resurface again!

However, the Kraken’s tentacles failed to entwine around the New-Serpent, and the squid-like limbs, appearing somewhat bewildered, once again shot up into the sky.

A smile appeared on Kijung’s lips.

“Bastard, you’re weaker than the serpent!”

For Kijung, who had protected 『something more important than life』, the attacks of the kraken were not something to be feared anymore.

And that was the beginning.

The tension that had not been relieved until just now suddenly returned to the users.

“Uooyo, it’s falling, it’s falling, it’s falling!”

“Damn it, steer the sail! Ki, port! Port, damn it!”

A kraken leg, as if a felled tree, was falling towards the top of the Blue Marlin.

NPCs were preparing to move along with Hyein, so there were fewer people to operate the ship. Burke tried to avoid it with all his might, but it was already too late.

『Electric Arrow』!”

“Trap, 『Knockback』!”

Fortunately, there were users to defend the Blue Marlin. The Shaman Uncheon placed a totem, and Trapper Snare activated his trap devices. Along with the huge current flowing through the kraken’s legs and the compressed gas spewing from the small treasure chest-like object just before, the attack that seemed to break the New Serpent’s deck into pieces was paralyzed in the air, bounced back, and returned into the sea.

“Hoo, Rubini! Is the kraken still under control?!”

“Bailephus is doing his best, but it’s still— there are still more than five left!”

“Annoying fish heads! Let’s see if you’ll eat fish dishes in the future!”

The fishmen were skillfully controlling the kraken. They knew that as long as they avoided the breath, they could evade and drag it back into the water. Meanwhile, a small number of other fishmen and several large-sized krakens were quickly sinking the ships. Their tactics were easy to read, but preventing them was by no means easy.

“Sage! I’m sorry, but can you go ahead for about 5 minutes?”

“What? B-but going around the closest point is— there’s still about 20 minutes left?”

“I wish I could do that, but the Summoner said that near the buoy, the current is weak! The wind is weak too! Most importantly, captain Drake is not here! The tanker is amazing, but he doesn’t have the leisure to clear the typhoon during battle!”

“That’s what—”

(To be continued…)
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 When facing the mermaids and the kraken, navigation didn’t come to a halt. Therefore, the summoner Elmi, even while dealing with the mermaids and kraken, continued the journey. Thus, at the request of Burke and Hook, summoner Elmi, using her summoned creatures, had already scouted the vicinity of the “buoy” and transmitted that information to the respective ships.

“When you go there, the ship’s speed sharply decreases, and on top of that, there are reports of encountering a storm! Do we want to create a situation where the fishmen are rushing up? Turn the wheel! Starboard! Starboard!”

Hook shouted at Hyein and quickly turned the key.

The appearance of the fishmen presented another problem. The primary goal was to maneuver around the outer edge of the floating island, the “buoy.”

Teleportation had a higher success rate when the distance was shorter.

Using mass teleportation, carrying all the laborers and materials needed for constructing the mana relay tower, was a precaution to make the adventure a bit safer. However…

Under normal circumstances, even if the speed decreased slightly, they would have approached with enough distance for safety. But now, in an emergency situation, there was no such luxury.

“Anyway, get ready! In 3 minutes! In 3 minutes, it will probably be the closest point to that island!”

“Just a little more, even 10 more minutes-”

“If you want all of us to die together, we can get even closer!”

Hook yelled abruptly.

Hyein was also full of dissatisfaction, but there was no choice. Hyein knew that Hook was doing his best in his own way.

Now they needed to find a landing point.

“It’s an artificially created island. There’s no sandy beach. It would be safe to teleport if there were development sites.”

It’s not connected to the underwater land but was literally a floating island on the water. Since it was not naturally formed, there was no coastline like a sandy beach.

“On that note, the shape of the island is like a typical volcanic island with a protruding center… There seem to be many trees, and the view is heavily obscured due to the nearby storms.”

The island is substantial enough to cover a considerable portion of the field of vision. Constructing a mana relay tower on the artificially elevated terrain at the center would be perfect.

However, how to get there is the problem for Hyein and Team B. There wasn’t a suitable place to teleport to.

“It’s not like Blink or mass teleportation is an adventure like this… But there’s no choice. We have to do it. In the worst case, I might die, but… if the laborer NPCs survive, the mana relay tower will be constructed.”

Of course, those NPCs also would not be able to return to the ships alive. Unless Hyein teleported them back, they would wither and die on the island.


But the first goal of the quest would be achieved.

Preparing for such situations, Hyein gave instructions to the laborer NPCs. Even if she isn’t visible, they should climb to the top of the island and construct the mana relay tower.

The giant NPCs nodded with determined attitudes.

“We’re here, we’re here! Get ready—!”

At Hook’s shout, Hyein began casting, hoping for everyone’s safety.

“Zig–!”

“Hyein-hyungnim, you can do it!”

“Mass Teleport!”

Then, casting the skill vigorously, he thrust her staff into the magic circle. The violet radiance disappeared into the air, shooting up from the New Serpent ship.

The B-Team’s 100-hour time-limited operation began just now, on the 20th day of entering the Dragon Palace’s waters.

“All right! They’re gone! I was worried because there was no whisper!”

Leeha understood the situation by observing his friend’s location on the friend list. The lack of a reply to the whisper meant that they were still in the midst of a battle.

Therefore, Leeha had considered the possibility that Hyein’s B-Team might not move properly.

“For the next 100 hours, Hyein will be fine.”

More than anything, the fact that his name was still on the friend list was evidence. It meant that the worst-case scenario of the caster dying during mass teleportation had been avoided.

By about a day and a half from now, the C-Team would arrive near the Dragon Palace and log out for a day. By then, Hyein’s mana relay tower construction would likely show a progress rate of over 50%.

“His personality is still a question mark, but in terms of ‘ability’, there’s nothing to complain about Hyein-nim. Now, I just have to do well. Just me.”

Leeha’s emitted bubbles as a sign, tapping Sea Bream’s arm lightly. It was a sign to move a little faster.

As he estimated the users’ positions and situations through the friend list, Leeha naturally couldn’t know the details.

“Haah… Haah… Is everyone okay?! Check the personnel and materials!”


Mana consumption varies depending on the mass being teleported. Pouring almost all her mana into a single teleportation, Hyein felt as if her blood pressure dropped for a moment.

“The materials… cough, cough… the materials are okay.”

“What about the personnel?”

“That’s… um… there…”

“Ah…”

Hyein let out a muted groan. Like organisms growing parasitically on trees, the bodies of the eleven giants were intertwined with the trees, turning a reddish-Brown color.

The only fortunate thing was that all the materials for constructing the mana relay tower were safely transported. Also, the fact that Hyein was the leader of Team B.

“Move faster! Everyone, carry the materials and head to the mountain! The goal is the mountain summit! The mana relay tower will be built on the mountaintop!”

Regaining his composure immediately, Hyein began giving orders to the laborers. When the entire team of 30 laborers was fully operational, the construction time for the mana relay tower would be 100 hours. However, they had lost 11 members.

Calculating the construction time by simply adding the loss of 11 members, the estimated completion time was approximately 131 hours later.

In essence, they had exceeded the time limit.

“I can’t give up like this. Compared to someone who jumped into the sea without any weapons, my situation is much better.”

Hyein gritted his teeth, thinking of someone in a more difficult situation than him in various aspects. In many ways, Leeha was influencing the New Continent Expeditionary Team.

Bleep, bleep, bleep!

“Ugh… I can’t shake off this fatigue at all.”

Turning off the alarm, Leeha struggled to get up. He had fallen asleep collapsing after logging out, and now his allotted rest time was over.

“Maybe jumping into KCTC one more time would be better. It might be tougher than waiting for battle readiness.”

At least the burden on his brain would be greater than that. The brain had been operating without a break for the equivalent of ten days.

However, there was no time for regrets. He had last confirmed the appearance of the Dragon Palace before logging out. Now, from the moment he logged in, he would have to start the operation.

“It’s been exactly 23 days since entering the Dragon Palace’s waters. If we consider Hyein-nim and my time limits leniently, I have been given around 28 hours. No, to be on the safer side, it might be within 12 hours.”


Hyein had discussed the time limit with Bailephus and they conversed about linking with mana, but Leeha only had the Chain Teleportation skill with the Three Musketeers, whose effectiveness he wasn’t sure of.

“Linking with the highest level sage and an ancient gold dragon… Whether the Three Musketeers’ Chain Teleportation skill can match that level of power… No, let’s not waste time and finish it quickly. I need to log in and advance the operation even by an hour.”

He still couldn’t get used to the feeling uncomfortable sensation of rushing even after several logins, and Leeha returned to the world of Middle Earth.

“Ah, you’re here.”

“Ha Leeha-nim!”

『■ Kyukyukyu!』

Sea Bream, anderson, and Blaugrunn greeted Leeha. They had already found a sufficient resting place in front of the Dragon Palace, knowing the boundary points of the mermaids.

Leeha: Anything unusual?

“None.”

Leeha: The three scouts haven’t returned, so there might have been something unusual… The system hasn’t been fully established yet. It’s a good sign for us.

Born, die, born, die. After the members of the New Continent Expeditionary Team entered the Dragon Palace’s waters, the life cycle of the fishmen had become excessively short and fast, making it impossible to perfectly control.

“That’s right. The boundary pattern is the same as what that guy caused.”

“So that’s the problem… We could come here without any trouble, but this time… sigh.”

Anderso sighed. While Leeha logged out and was sleeping, sea Bream and Anderson repeated the cycle of sleeping and waking up, surveying the surroundings.

However, the boundary pattern was no different from what Leeha heard from the mermaids last time.

The entrance to the purification chamber was thoroughly blocked by the fishmen without any gaps.

Leeha: Hmm… If Black Bass could be used now… we could finish it with a sniper shot and infiltrate safely.

Leeha felt regret. The frustration of not being able to use his specialty at the time it was most needed overwhelmed him.

‘Fortunately, the purification chamber and the Dragon Palace are quite a distance away. Moreover, we were told to enter through a cave entrance and continue descending to the deep sea.’

Once he entered the entrance to the purification chamber, the fishmen would not be able to detect him. But that was not possible.

They would definitely be caught.

‘How can I pass? What should I do?’

“Ha Leeha-nim, I remembered the story that Ha Leeha told us.”

“Kkorok?”

Sea Bream brought up a seemingly unrelated topic to Leeha, who was looking around.

“Didn’t Young Master confirm it personally and receive the clothes as proof?”

“Kkorok?”

Hmm… why? Leeha asked, curious. Even during the long journey here, Leeha had shared his story or listened to the mermaids’ stories to build mutual trust and gather hints for other achievements, quests, or the path to the New Continent.

It wasn’t just out of boredom.

It was to further build trust between them and, at the same time, think about whether there might be any hints for other achievements, quests, or the path to the New Continent.

However, from the perspective of the mermaid NPC, some stories seemed to be quite moving. In essence, it meant that Drake acknowledged Leeha.

“It was the same on the ship. Moreover, Leeha-nim returning as a mermaid was also thanks to Ha Leeha’s dongsaeng on the ship the prince returned to being a mermaid”, said Sea Bream with a warm smile, as if telling an old story. In contrast, anderson, who was next to him, had an uneasy expression. 『Kyu-woo-woo….』 Blaugrunn also made a sigh-like whimpering sound.

In a moment, something passed through Leeha’s mind.

Leeha: Are you trying to become the bait yourself?

“Huh? Hahaha, as expected. You can’t earn prince’s recognition with just faith. It’s because of that skill. You saw it very well.”

Sea Bream placed his bone-like weapon on his tail fin. From there to Leeha’s waist, he cut off the blue strap connecting them.

“Please. Representing all mermaids, I ask you once again, honorable Ha Leeaha.”

Sea Bream, the large mermaid, bowed his head towards Leeha.

Why did the story of faith continue?

『Water Ring』 has been released.’

Since the forced movement skill has ended.

Other than expressing belief, there was no way to persuade Leeha.

Leeha opened the skill window and cast Chain Teleport: Three Musketeers. Kidd was logged out, and Luger was in a connected state. It is also activated.

‘If I use the skill right away? It will still be 100% effective. If I use 『Partner Summon』, I can safely summon Blaugrunn to the ship.’

『Purification Chamber Cleaning』

Failure: Achievement – 『The one who annihilated the Mermaids』, intimacy with Howard Drake -100%

The penalty for failing the mermaid quest may be a bit painful, but wasn’t life more important?! Drake even became a mermaid.

According to the last words left to the members of the New Continent Expedition, there was even a possibility that he would not return to the Kraven Kingdom. Even if the intimacy is -100%, if there is no chance of collision, it’s enough.

In other words, using the skill to return to the ship is a rational, safe, and even efficient choice! (To be continued…)
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 For the greater goal of the New Continent Expedition, sacrificing the individual was inevitable.

‘Damn it… damn, damn! Damn Middle Earth for playing with people like this!’

Leeha: Understood. Even if I have to die, I will restore the purification pool to normal.

However, Leeha did not take that approach.

‘I’m not playing Middle Earth just for fun. I have a clear goal to earn surgery fees. However, even so! I don’t want to sell my conscience for guilt-ridden money. I know clearly that this mermaid is not a real human but an NPC!’

Was he pretending to be good?

Was he being a hypocrite?

Maybe that was what it was. Leeha couldn’t even understand his own feelings properly.

The important thing was that choosing that path was too one-dimensional now that he knew the direction ‘Middle Earth was leading.’

It might not be hypocrisy but just a simple mistake.

Sea Bream was shedding tears.

“Thank you. Really, thank you. As a water spirit and a member of the Undine, even if this body turns into foam and disappears, I will repay this favor.”

Leeha: Foam… it would be troublesome if you turn into foam. If Sea Bream-nim makes a mistake, I’ll be in big trouble too. Haha.

One of the failure conditions for the quest was the death of the Sea God’s Guard Captai. Thus, he began to plan a strategy for infiltrating the purification pool, dispelling the awkward atmosphere caused by Sea Bream volunteering as bait.

Since Sea Bream volunteered to become the bait, there was no reason to hesitate.

About five minutes after Sea Bream volunteered, fishmen suddenly appeared near the Dragon Palace.

“Hakit?”

“Ha, what! A mermaid!? How did a mermaid come here?”

“How he got here is none of our business. Get him-!”

Sea Bream began to fight with two sentry fishmen, shouting loudly. The sudden movement caused a ripple that was soon detected by all the fishmen near the Dragon Palace.


“Hakikiki!”

“Hakkyu, hakkyu!”

Shwaaaaack-!

After confirming the fishmen swimming rapidly, sea Bream easily defeated the two fishmen he was facing and started to flee.

“These bastards! I, sea Bream, will personally deal with the Sea God’s Guardian Captain!”

Hakyukyukyukyukyukyukyukyukyukyukyu—–!

The procession of fishmen chasing after Sea Bream was unending.

When the number reached twenty, forty, and eighty, by the time it increased to one hundred, those hiding behind the rocks—Andercon, Leeha, and Blaugrunn—slowly moved towards the entrance of the purification pool to avoid being detected by the fishmen.

‘Fish heads are fish heads.’ Even the guards protecting the entrance of the purification pool chased. Leeha was once again amazed at their remarkable intelligence.

“I should have gone… Captain, is he okay?”

Leeha: Don’t think about that, anderson-ssi. Once it has started, we should focus on our work.

“Well, yes. Yes. I understand.”

Anderson was regretting that he didn’t volunteer to be the bait. Leeha understood that he might not understand it in various ways.

‘Anderson is faster than Sea Bream, but handling emergency situations and stamina might be a bit challenging for him.’

If it were Sea Bream, he would disrupt and escape from even a relatively tight encirclement, buying time. But Anderson? Being unable to handle weapons properly, there was a possibility that he wouldn’t be able to escape even if only a few fishmen set up an encirclement.

‘No, even before that, he might not have a tactical understanding of concepts like encirclement or weaknesses… Sea Bream put him in the Sea God’s Guardian, but it’s just a possibility, and he still needs to grow a bit… As Anderson himself said, for a ‘low-rank’ water spirit like him, the role of bait this time is too much’, Leeha judged.

“Hey there!”

“Grook…”,,,

The entrance to the purification pool was a wide-open hole. It looked small, but that was because the comparison was the ‘sea.’ In reality, it was a hole as big as a football stadium.

‘I can’t grasp how deep it is.’


To Leeha, who swam in the vast sea, the fear of confinement seemed to arise anew. In the hole, where the light didn’t come in properly, there was not even a glimmer of light, and naturally, the end was not visible.

Leeha: How far should we go?

“I haven’t been deep enough to know, but Sea Bream said the purification pool would know. He said it emits light from the deepest part.”

『Kyuuuu.』

Blaugrunn, embraced by Leeha, showed an expression that seemed to say he was not happy.

Now that Sea Bream was gone, anderson was holding Leeha, and Leeha, while listening to Blaugrunn’s cries, looked around.

‘There’s nothing to see, no light… With this level of darkness, even a small light should be visible.’

As Leeha was just descending from the entrance, there were still some lights above his head. However, as the depth increased, the color of the water turned darker.

“Guruuk…”

Bubbles rose. However, the air bubbles were not visible.

‘I can’t see anything even if I open the character window. It’s pitch black, right?’

Leeha thought that using the brightness of the system window might help, but nothing worked.

As he descended further, Leeha felt his senses dulling.

“Lee-Leeha-nim, are you okay?”

『Kyuu?』

Anderson, the mermaid, was in the same situation. There was no sight. Even sound didn’t travel properly underwater. Even for a mermaid, it was a space where they could feel a sense of unease.

“Bu-gru-guk…”

Feeling Anderson’s touch and recalling the sensation of Blaugrunn’s scales wrapped around him, Leeha reluctantly regained his composure. But it didn’t last long. Whether he opened or closed his eyes, the darkness that he couldn’t tell whether it was opening or closing was trying to take away even his senses. Leeha thought it was fortunate that Anderson and Blaugrunn were with him.

‘Dangerous. This is a dangerous place.’

If he were alone, he might have lost even his sense of direction, becoming lost in this place.


‘Even if a monster appears, I won’t be able to see it. In the past, they said there were no monsters…’

Since the Sea God turned into a fishman, nothing could be guaranteed. The underwater fear, in this moment of invisibility if a giant anglerfish were to come up with its mouth wide open?

Anderson, Leeha, and Blaugrunn would be swallowed and die just like that. Even until the moment of being swallowed, they wouldn’t even realize the existence of the giant anglerfish.

Gulp.

Leeha swallowed his saliva. Perhaps it was the effect of a mental attack spell that could be cast by a warlock. In this place that stimulated his dark imagination and oppressed him, even the moment he was swallowed by a giant anglerfish. He had to think of practical thoughts to get rid of the fear.

‘The quest failure alert didn’t sound. Even if I can’t see, I can hear sounds, so I would know if Sea Bream died. It’s still okay.’ However, it was unknown how long it would remain okay. It might already be in a situation just before death with the siege set up. He had to hurry. But the endless darkness was hindering even Anderson’s speed. No, speed?

‘Speed? What’s my speed right now? Am I moving?’ Leeha exhaled with a whoosh.

“Bu-glug…”

The sound of bubbles being produced could be heard. However, there was no way to know how much he was moving or where he had moved.

‘Even the simple light adaptation of the eyeballs is impossible. There’s no way to see anything in this total darkness.’ His thoughts seemed to shrink as he descended into the deep sea as if the enormous pressure was limiting the scope of his thinking. It was the unrelenting power of the darkness that made it seem like he couldn’t expand his thoughts beyond the sensations of his retina, fingers, and toes, rather than thinking about the big picture.

Leeha vigorously shook his head, trying to reverse his thoughts. This was the moment to stay calm, to remain composed. Relax. Release tension from the waist. He was just going to clean the purification chamber. In other words, he was a plumber. Stay calm. Don’t get drowsy. After all, he was a plumber protecting the Earth, just like the Rio brothers with the surname “Ma” said.

“Bu-glug…”

Nothing had changed, neither Leeha nor Anderson. However, the effect was clear. The thought that had refused to expand until just now began to loosen. Jokes were meant to release tension, so it was said that jokes should be made at the most crucial moments. At least, this theory of humor definitely worked for Leeha at this very moment.

“Kikik, I used to think of myself as a Korean when watching that comic movie. It feels like such a betrayal. Using a good name like Luigi and making it sound like Mari-”

At this point, when such thoughts were occurring, and the concept of time had become vague after entering the purification chamber, a faint light appeared from somewhere far below.

“Oh! Oh! Anderson, is that light? Am I not seeing things?”

“Well, it seems so. Light—it seems to be! It looks like the purification chamber!”

After being away from the light for so long, Leeha couldn’t be sure if he was seeing things correctly. Blaugrunn quickly made the sound of ‘kyu, kyu, kyu.’

“Buglug, bugut?!”

Is Blaugrunn happy too? Leeha thought of saying that but hesitated. He still couldn’t see the faces of Anderson or Blaugrunn. The crying sound of Blaugrunn, who was in Leeha’s arms, was getting faster and faster.

“Anderson! Detect—”

“Huh? What’s—what’s moving? But what… is it? I don’t know. It’s the first time I’ve felt a wave like this—a wave that feels like several giant squid legs. But it’s different from a kraken or squid. It seems like there’s a huge tail between those squid legs…” Before Leeha could finish speaking, anderson finished the detection.

Even though he was lower-ranked, he was a merman and a water spirit. He had the ability to discern the movements of a kraken through waves. He had easily classified numerous fish and whales he had encountered so far. But what if it was a wave he had never felt before? ‘No way… 『Kyu! Kyukyukyu! Kyu!』

He felt uneasy. The faint light that had been visible in the distance swayed, swayed like it was dancing, making Leeha even more uneasy.

“Shuuu…”

The light was gradually approaching Leeha.

“Oh, even though it’s my first time feeling it, it feels like a familiar wave… Where have I felt this before?”

“Shuuuuu…”

The light continued to approach.

Leeha could be sure of his uneasiness based on Anderson’s muttered words and the approaching light. However, it was not a comforting certainty.

‘The sea god is a mermaid. Mermaids have giant tails. And that sea god?’ Familiar yet strange. Moreover, what did Sea Bream say? Two proofs of the sea god’s abilities.

‘One of them was… what was it?’ And there was more. Something the mermaids had said. Even the mermaids couldn’t know the sea god’s location, they had said.

Leeha could instantly recall these two things.

‘One of the sea god’s abilities—revealing their own abilities with a crown that emits light! And even the current location is unknown! Then that—’

『Kyu! Kyu!』

Bugluglug-!

Leeha shouted while spewing bubbles.

“It’s the sea godddddd!”

“Huh, sea god?! Wow, wowaaaahhh!”

Shuwaaaahhh—!

Now Leeha could clearly see it. And it had to be understood that Anderson couldn’t detect the sea god’s waves. Was it three times bigger than Sea Bream? To call it a mermaid, it had an unreasonably large waist, and tentacles spread out in all directions like the hem of a skirt.

Holding Leeha and Blaugrunn, anderson started swimming vigorously, his tail moving wildly.

(To be continued…)
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 『I cannot yield this place!』

The trembling transmitted through the seawater reached Leeha’s back. Something was coming. Something huge and very threatening.

“Ande—”

“Huuaaah!”

Before Leeha could give an evasion order, anderson had already bent his upper body as much as possible.

Leeha felt a sensation of his back being forcibly twisted, but he couldn’t complain. Something narrowly brushed his head, giving him the feeling that something had passed.

There was no need to be curious about what it was.

Kugugugu—!

After a while, the sight of part of the purification chamber’s wall collapsing vaguely caught his eye.

‘Is this the sea god’s skill? Crazy, this is almost dragon-level… Oh, of course!’

Dragon-level? Until now, Leeha had based his assumption on the strongest monsters he had encountered and experienced. However, that was a wrong assumption. The king of water spirits, the leader of the tribe of waves, a being that created an immovable giant island with its own power, ‘Sea God, Poseidon.’

If the sea god had seen Leeha, who called him dragon-level, he might have killed Leeha even if he was sane.

‘To compare it with a dragon, should I consider it at least on the level of Lord Bahamut? Well, just the shining crown alone looks incredibly impressive!”

If the light from the head lantern were spread in all directions, would it be similar? However, the brightness was on a different level. Anderson, who was holding Leeha, could safely escape, thanks to the light illuminating the purification chamber wall. If there were no light, after being slammed into the wall, he would have been subjected to a decelerated onslaught from the sea god.

“Sea—Sea God! I’m coming! It’s me, anderson! Even if you don’t know my name—”

『Do you think I wouldn’t know you?!』

“What? If you know me, then why—”

“Do you think I ignored your filthy act just for the sake of our tribe’s safety?! But how dare you—”

Bwaaaaaaaah———-

Anderson shuddered again at the sound of the seawater vibrations.


“—To defile us with the aura of demons! Did I look that ridiculous to you? Le!”

Anderson folded his mermaid tail in half for evasion, and Leeha’s body was twisted.

Despite being in such a strange posture, Leeha did not ignore the sea god’s shouts.

“Le?! Bluebeard! Just as I thought! I knew it!”

The first thought that came to Leeha’s mind was that one of his speculations was correct.

He had believed that somehow everything would be connected. The discovery of mermaids, the appearance of fishmen, and even this quest! He couldn’t believe that the whole flow was just to sacrifice one expedition member as a scapegoat to reveal the location where the mana relay tower could be constructed.

“Maybe Bluebeard did something! Did the sea god come here to correct the purification chamber, and got attacked by Bluebeard? Did Bluebeard defeat the sea god?”

Even if Leeha lowered his estimate, it should be at least on the level of a Platinum Dragon Lord Bahamut. Leeha couldn’t be sure since he had never seen Bluebeard use 100% of his power.

“No, no, it doesn’t make sense.”

Shrinking his neck at the sea god’s roar from behind, Leeha changed his assumption.

The train of thought should not deviate. At a desperate moment like this, if the thought was not the most realistic and logical, all preparations would be in vain.

“Considering the time Anderson and Sea Bream mentioned and when Bluebeard left the Old Continent— it doesn’t match.”

Fortunately, Leeha had heard and seen this incident from various angles. All the hints to correct his hypothesis were already in his head. When did Bluebeard pass through here? Did he contaminate the purification chamber, wait for the sea god to come to ‘purify’ it, fight and defeat him, and then transform him into a fishman?

That didn’t fit Bluebeard’s ‘grand plan.’ The reason he used all kinds of tricks and left the Old Continent was to buy time, wasn’t it?

“He wouldn’t have spent time in the sea! If he knew that the sea god was the cause after the purification chamber was contaminated for quite some time, then—”

‘Just by looking at the reaction towards Anderson, that’s right. Perhaps the reason no mermaid or fishman knows the whereabouts of the sea god is because… there might not have been any witnesses in the first place!’

The possibility that the sea god directly killed everyone approaching, mistaking all approaching mermaids and fishmen as Bluebeard. If that were really the case?

‘Contamination’ might not be as simple as just tentacles growing on the sea god’s waist.

It implied more than just changing the appearance to that of a fishman.

‘So, currently, the sea god is experiencing hallucinations, no, more than that— mental confusion…?’ Leeha looked back.


Anderson was certainly not slow, but it was impossible to increase the speed further while carrying Leeha, so the distance with the sea god was rapidly decreasing.

‘Then, what is the way to fix it? What—’ Before Leeha could organize his thoughts, the sea god swung his trident.

“I will never let you go, le!”

Kwagwagwagwa————

The waves were not the ordinary ripples on the sea surface at this moment.

Waves crashed in the sea.

“Ugh, ughhh!”

“Splash, splatter!”

Despite the terrifying sounds from behind, anderson did not let go of Leeha and Blaugrunn.

Knowing that his swimming was delayed due to their weight, the merman never gave up on them.

“Ha Leeha-nim and Dragon-nim, even if I have to risk my life—”

Swish, while Anderson was speaking, the waves covered them. There seemed to be no apparent change from the outside, but the fact that the waves reached Leeha was evident from Anderson’s reaction. As if soaring through the air, anderson, who lost control of his body underwater, clung tightly to Leeha, speeding towards the wall of the purification chamber.

『Splash, splish!』

“Fishman, puhaha—!”

“Gurgle, splash!”

‘Too fast, we might die on impact—’

Observing the rapidly approaching wall of the purification chamber, Leeha raised both hands to cover his face. In an instant, Leeha felt his position being reversed.

Pueok!

As the range narrowed down, the intensified water current slammed Leeha, anderson, and Blaugrunn against the wall.

“Keheuk!”


Compared to the expected damage, Leeha’s situation was surprisingly unharmed. In fact, the approaching light of the sea god was directly in front of him.

“Boo, splatter!?”

‘Anderson!’

Anderson truly kept his last words. The lesser water spirit rotated his body upon impact, taking all the shocks to protect Leeha and Blaugrunn. Leeha felt grateful for the merman’s self-sacrificing spirit but couldn’t help feeling saddened at the same time.

‘Even if he’s kind, without him…’

Leeha held onto the unconscious Anderson and the anxious Blaugrunn, struggling in distress. However, even a fast-moving merman couldn’t escape from the sea god, and human footsteps seemed powerless to repel him.

『Kyuuu, kyuuu…』

Blaugrunn was trembling.

Even a dragon of the sea serpent class couldn’t break free from the majesty of the approaching sea god, narrowing the distance.

『Pathetic imitation, le. To think you would struggle so much cornered. Is this the best the fragment of a demon lord can do?』

The sea god approached, slowing down. He knew very well that no ‘target’ within his sight could escape anymore.

‘What should I do? Damn it, weapons are useless anyway. It would have been nice if the electric shocker worked from a distance but at this rate…’ Leeha had to approach the sea god and attach the electric shocker’s rod to his body for the effect to take place.

However, the size of the blade of the trident was larger than Blaugrunn. Handling it freely and using various skills, the sea god had no chance of getting close with his slow swimming skills.

Approaching the sea god with a clumsy freestyle or a breaststroke would have resulted in his body being torn apart in an instant.

『Minion of the demon lord, fragment of the demon king. I can forgive you. I, a representative of the spirit realm, understand your desire. Absorbing the power of water spirits to subdue the powers of other demons.』

The sea god slowly raised the trident. Despite the continuous keywords that disrupted concentration, Leeha’s thoughts did not falter. How to escape? What can be done against the sea god?

『But now, you must bear the consequences of your greed. 〈Chilling-』

However, with the sea god already on the verge of attacking, there was not enough time to think. Even underwater, the mana particles gathering at the tip of the sea god’s trident were distinct. Something had to be done first.

‘Damn it, at least this—〈Halucination: Bahamut〉! Please, let it work, please, please, please.’

Flash—!

A special skill that required no casting time immediately activated. Above Leeha’s head, a gigantic illusion of Bahamut, large enough to fill the cave of the purification chamber, appeared.

At least the first objective of diverting the sea god’s attention and buying time to think had been achieved. The problem was that the sea god was much stronger and more capable than ordinary monsters or NPCs. No, if only there weren’t symptoms of mental disorder, this skill of Leeha would have worked.

‘What can you do now with something like gigantification, le! 『Chilling Trident』

Because of the sea god’s perception, it seemed like that even to his eyes.

Mana particles did not disperse. Without any hesitation, the sea god immediately cast a spell toward the illusion of Bahamut.

Shwaah—–!

The blue mana particles gathered at the tip of the trident transformed back into the form of a massive trident and shot forward. With ominous momentum and size enough to overwhelm, the attacking magic pierced under Bahamut’s illusion, passing through before Leeha could even open his mouth. And when the illusion revealed itself to be just an illusion, it disappeared.

The enormous body of the Platinum Dragon vanished into thin air.

『Vanished?! What kind of scheme are you trying to concoct with such a mere illusion!』

For the first time, the sea god was perplexed. The reason for that was apparent. Therefore, Leeha had no choice but to bite his lower lip in frustration.

‘Damn it! We were almost there!’ Since he was approaching the sea god while drawing attention to Bahamut, Leeha had to resort to such a desperate move.

‘It’s so close, but not quite there!’ The last gamble that Leeha came up with was just that.

While diverting attention to the illusion, he would approach and use the electric shock device secretly! However, it didn’t take the sea god long to discover Leeha with his unfocused eyes.

‘Even if I hadn’t widened the distance… Damn it!’ With about six more beats of the drum, it would take several seconds to narrow the distance again. Leeha couldn’t afford to give up.

Leeha desperately played the drum. The remaining distance was about 8 meters!

“Pitiful, le!”

Now, was there no need for magic?

The sea god swiftly swung his trident. The remaining distance was now 6 meters, the exact length of the trident’s shaft! The blade of the trident was descending precisely towards Leeha’s neck.

“I made it, 〈Force Barrier〉!”

A reddish barrier enveloped Leeha, but that mere skill melted away like ice cream by the sea god’s trident.

The remaining distance was 4.5 meters! If this were on land or if he were running at full speed, he might have jumped and stretched out his hand to reach it barely. However, this was underwater, and with Leeha’s swimming speed, such a situation was impossible. Eventually, Leeha had to make a choice. In order to block the approaching trident for even a second and buy a little time, he had to make a decision.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha also knew. It couldn’t be helped. Even though Koma couldn’t use its roar like normal. No matter how much of a soul he was, whenever it revived and its flesh reconstructed, Koma could feel pain again!

‘I’m sorry, I’m sorry, Koma, there’s nothing else I can do like this! 『Soul Link』!’

A bright crimson light, brighter than the crown of the sea god, burst forth from the depths of the purification pool.

“Kkoop- Kkubyeong?!”

Rrrrr-!

In an instant, flames ignited on Koma’s dark red skin. The red light burning even underwater momentarily presented a fantastic sight, but Koma didn’t transform into a ‘fire bear’ just to illuminate the light. Although he responded to Leeha’s call by borrowing a physical form, Koma was not a being that could breathe underwater. It was just a transformation in response to the feeling of its life being threatened. It was Leeha’s last gamble. And the gamble succeeded.

『… Spirit? One of the Fire Spirits—no, that can’t be right—you must be a Demon King’s Fragment—』

The only life form recognized by the sea god, who saw all beings as bluebeards, was not a water spirit or a platinum dragon. It was a pitifully large bear struggling without even being able to breathe. Now, the remaining distance is 3m.

『-Impossible! Are you trying to tell me, le, that you’ve subdued a fire spirit? You can’t persuade me with such a half-spirit like this! Ahhh!』 Although momentarily stunned, the sea god, perhaps thinking it was Bluebeard’s trick, raised his trident again.

“Kkuwoong- Kkuuuup-!”

The trident, swung with the force to cut through the current, precisely cut through Koma’s body. The soul kate imbued with the fiery spirit that even surprised the red dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh dissipated unceremoniously.

However, it was not without any results. The remaining distance: 2.1m! Leeha moved his legs vigorously as if his thighs were about to burst.

『This is the end, leeeeeeeeeeee!』

The sea god swung his arm back and thrust the trident towards Leeha. If it pierced, the entirety of Leeha’s body would be skewered! The remaining distance was 1.8m, and Leeha pulled out an item from the bag, aiming it at the sea god’s torso.

‘Ahhhh, please stop, sea God-nim!’

Underwater, the sea god’s movements were much faster. Even if an electric shock hit him, the accelerated trident was enough to pierce through Leeha’s body. In the final moment, it seemed like Leeha, who had used every skill as if pouring them out, would burst into laughter with indescribable excitement and trembling. Now that he had come this far, there was only one thing left.

There was a high chance of dying, and he would be lucky to live.

Now, there was nothing to hold back.

‘Switch ON—‘

Click.


The Leeha’s determination became a reality. He used ‘all of his skills’ in the clash.

‘——And, 『Platinum Shield』!’

Papapaapapa———!

『Platinum Shield』

Description: To protect its kin, the Platinum Dragon Bahamut created a magic that temporarily uses mana to shape itself like its scales. While it protects the caster without any gaps, the concentration of mana, shaped like the legendary metal dragon Sovereign’s scales, cannot last long.

Effect: Mana Scale Coating of Bahamut’s Scale

Mana: 777 Duration: 15 seconds Cooldown: 24 hours

『kwaaaaaa, kwaaaaaa–!』

It was one of the two skills Leeha received from the Platinum Dragon Bahamut and a skill that he had never used until now. The emergency defense skill that he did not want to reveal, kept hidden until now, was intended for use against Bluebeard.

But there was no point in regretting now.

Moreover, since 『Force Barrier』 had already cracked, this was the only way for Leeha to protect himself from the electric shock.

“Drip, drip, drip!”

Please, please… just faint!

The Leeha’s body was covered in a strange shade somewhere between silver and white.

There was no sensation of electricity bouncing back from the electric shock machine.

The performance of skills attached to the ring and the skills directly provided by Bahamut were on a different level. The problem was that the sea god’s health was also on a different level.

『This— Le——-!』

“Prrrrrk!!”

Unbelievable!

Bubbles bubbled up from Leeha’s mouth.


It was unthinkable that the presence of at least Bahamut level would be paralyzed by the electric shock made from the scales of an ‘Adult Dragon’!

Though slow, the sea god’s arms continued to move.

Holding the shaft of the trident short, the sea god aimed the tip of the trident directly at Leeha’s eyes.

Clang-clang-!

The sound of the tightly attached trident scraping against the shield echoed as it touched the defense barrier, letting out a scream. For Leeha, it was definitely not a pleasant experience.

‘What is this—feels like scratching my eyeballs!’

The Platinum Shield was tightly wrapped around Leeha, and the sea god’s trident continued to strike to break through the seemingly thin shield.

“The electric shock won’t last long. It’s already starting to weaken. What if this doesn’t work? What should I do?”

But closing his eyes was not an option. The sea god was moving, albeit slowly. Once the electric shock subsided, he would immediately widen the distance. To respond promptly, he couldn’t allow himself the luxury of blinking.

Crackle, crackle…——…….

『It was an interesting move, but now—』

Every time the electric shock machine intermittently took effect, the sea god’s movements were gradually normalizing. It was directly proportional to Leeha’s expression becoming more and more distressed.

“There’s no Plan B! The plan was to go down to the purification pool after neutralizing the electric shock machine!”

Brrr!

Bubbles of self-loathing rose from Leeha’s mouth. There were no more cards to play. All cards were open, and the sea god’s card just had stronger power!

『This is the end, le——! 『undine’s-』

Whooooosh!

As the sea god was about to completely annihilate Leeha using magic, Leeha felt a small ripple from behind. A rhythmic, splashy sensation reached him! If it were on land, would you hear the sound of ‘splash, splash’?

‘Blaugrunn-ssi!’

The bronze dragon’s hatchling knew well what Leeha’s weapon was. Moreover, how to ‘enhance’ it.


『Kyuooooooo—–!』

When the turquoise mana touched Leeha’s body, right arm, and the electric shock machine he was holding.

Pachichi chi chi chi——–

Lightning spread from underwater. It was an incredibly intense brightness that blinded Leeha’s eyes. After the light that dyed everything white disappeared, Leeha couldn’t see anything for a while.

『Kyuoo, kyuooo…』

Blaugrunn, having expended all the mana he had, couldn’t contain his body even underwater.

The sound of Blaugrunn’s cries guided Leeha’s groping hands, and he embraced him awkwardly.

『Kyuoo, kyuoo-』

Leeha: Yes, thank you. You did well.

『Kyuuuuuu!』

Blaugrunn fainted in Leeha’s arms as if he had just closed his eyes. Leeha’s vision was gradually recovering.

“Is it over…? Did I… die? No, I can’t die.”

The only thing visible was the crown on the sea god’s head.

The energy emitted by the crown felt faint, considering the tremendous energy the electric shock machine released. Of course, Leeha knew that the sea god was not dead. There was no notification window for quest failure.

“But the lack of movement means… he must be in a state of unconsciousness.”

As the light that seemed to be fading gradually normalized, Leeha could once again perceive the form of the sea god. A gigantic body lying underwater! Perhaps connected to the sea god’s will, the tentacles were also stretched out and no longer moved.

“It was weak, but there was definitely a tingling feeling in my arm. It means that the defense skill, not 『Force Barrier』 but at the level of 『Platinum Shield』, was partially pierced.”

Even in a state where acceleration was not applied, he somehow blocked the sea god’s trident attacks with the defense skill. When Blaugrunn’s mana was added, the voltage rose to the point where he could feel the rebound effect of the electric shock. If there was no Platinum Shield, ‘Is there any achievement related to killing oneself in Middle Earth?’

Leeha dismissed the absurd thought and swam towards Anderson. Anderson was still unconscious. It was fortunate that he hadn’t turned into ash. In the last situation, anderson’s sacrificial spirit and momentary judgment had saved everyone here.

‘Thank you, anderson-ssi. I’m sorry for underestimating you.’

Leeha worked hard, holding Sea Bream in one hand and Anderson in the other, swimming towards the deeper part of the purification pool, using the light from the sea god’s crown as a beacon.

‘Great. Anyway, it went as planned. Now there’s only one thing left!’

Brrrr, brrrr……

Leeha exhaled air bubbles loudly.

‘We just need to clean the purification pool. Before the sea god wakes up!’

Hoo, hoo, hoo—!

The once awkward swimming seemed to gradually become more familiar, as Leeha skillfully navigated through the water like a seasoned scuba diver.

****

“Hakiiiiit-! Stop, mermaaaaaid-!”

“Hakut, ha*, ■”

“No way, 『Bubble Shot』!”

Sea Bream skillfully cast the spell. A burst of bubbles inflated and overturned one of the mermaids who tried to block his path.

“Haap!”

Towards the other one, he deftly deflected its weapon and passed by, slashing!

The neutralization of the two mermaids happened in the blink of an eye.

Even so, sea Bream couldn’t afford to be complacent.

“Capture him, catch him!”

The number of mermaids chasing from behind had reached a point where it was impossible to count, and they were closing in from all directions. Not only the front, back, and sides, but if he relaxed even a bit, they would launch a downward assault with their weapons from above his head.

About 20 minutes had passed since Leeha and Anderson entered the purification pool. Currently, sea Bream had neutralized or killed over thirty mermaids, but the situation was deteriorating.

“Hakiiit! Light the crammots-!”

“Hakyukyu, hakyu!”

One fishman’s body trembled. Even in Sea Bream’s ears, who was running away, their painful cries were clearly audible. Sea Bream knew what the fishmen were doing.

“Hoo, hoo, is it a Kraken?”

Sea Bream took a deep breath. Since the fishmen had called for a Kraken, they stopped chasing him urgently, allowing him a momentary rest.

But that was it.

“30m class. If I use that skill, I might be able to handle one, but already it’s too…

“

The Kraken, a monster so large you could believe it even though it was a black stain in the distant sea, approached, tentacles swaying. It is no longer possible to use magic continuously, and the momentum of the surrounding fishermen is terrible to challenge with hand-to-hand combat.

Sea Bream turned around

Tta- tta- tta- tta- tta- tta-!

From the beginning, the fishmen who had vigorously chased Sea Bream were constructing a siege net. In the forefront, there were also monsters with large pincers.

“A Shield Lobster? Were they determined to push us in this direction from the start?”

It had a tough shell, shield-like, yet the gap in its open pincers was strong enough to shred anything caught in it. Though it had the drawback of being slow, with the fishmen supporting from behind, that kind of drawback would be easily compensated.

The fishmen weren’t chasing Sea Bream haphazardly. It seemed they were slowly preparing to perfectly and surely capture the Great Commander of the Sea Guard, who possessed a physique superior to the fishmen.

“Ha Leeha…”

Sea Bream aimed for the entrance of the purification pool in the distance. Was he hoping for the purified sea god, Leeha, and Anderson to emerge from there and defeat all the fishmen? However, even after watching for a while, nothing seemed to be happening. Moreover, it was impossible to know how much progress had been made.

“Pheeew… Good. The punishment for not protecting the sea god. As the leader of the Sea Guard—”

Sea Bream knew well that his task was to bide his time for a maximum of an hour, waiting for the unpredictable moment.

“Even if I have to die, I will complete this mission.”

(To be continued…)

.
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 “Kkagak- Kkakak-!”

The shield lobsters and fishmen were gradually closing in.

While there was a considerable distance from the Kraken, no matter how fast Sea Bream swam, he couldn’t avoid the tentacles of the waiting Kraken. In a virtually complete encirclement situation, sea Bream was prepared for death.

“Hakikit! The last mermaid! With the death of the last mermaid, we’ll make all the fishmen submit to the death of the last mermaid!”

Hakiiiiit——– Hakyuuuu

“Come on, impurities! You bastards— hmmm?”

As the fishmen roared in unison, preparing to charge, sea Bream was about to rush straight at them when a strange wave was detected in his senses.

“Hakot, all together, hakkit, charge-!”

Kkak, Kkagak-!

Along with the sound of the Shield Lobsters’ pincers, the fishmen began to charge. Witnessing the onslaught of a large army, sea Bream couldn’t gather his thoughts.

“No way…?!”

Fishmen have a longer detection range than lobsters. The ‘wave’ that surprised Sea Bream was about to reach the fishmen at that moment.

“Hakikit, hak-hat?”

“Kyuu, kyuu?”

“ This, this is-”

Considering that they had different detection ranges, the fact that they detected it almost simultaneously despite the significant time difference meant?

“Hakikit, it’s a fast Hakkit- Quickly, fast Hakkyuut!”

The wave was incredibly fast! Sea Bream couldn’t believe it while looking at the approaching wave. The fact that they detected it at almost the same time despite having different detection ranges?

“Hakkit, control – control mages, hakkit! Quickly! Control mages, hakkyuut!”

The fishmen were confused as Sea Bream expected. Seeing that, the Captain of the Sea God’s Guards wanted to shed tears. The black and white dots approaching were getting larger and larger.


“Everyone prepare!”

“Shvalt, hrubit.”

As Sea Bream discovered the two sea serpents, the Black Serpent and the White Serpent, gracefully swaying their tails, swimming towards him, sea Bream’s eyes sparkled.

“Clean them all up.”

Ssssh- Shaaaaaa——-!

Upon seeing the sea serpents, the Kraken immediately ran away. The serpents, not caring about large prey like a giant squid, swallowed the fishmen one by one, tore them apart and thrashed them around.

“Prince!!”

“I came back, but don’t get too excited, sea Bream. Let’s clean up first.”

“Understood, understood. Understood, my lord!”

He returned, but not really. Sea Bream might have understood Drake’s words, but at least now, it wasn’t important to the Sea God’s Guard Captain. Ignoring Sea Bream’s ecstatic response, drake used his fingertips to shoot water streams and began to hunt down the fishmen. Even though the fishmen, shield Lobsters, and even the controlling fishmen dark mages that had tamed and guided creatures like the Kraken came, there was no way to stop Drake, shvalt, and Hrubit’s onslaught.

“Hak, hakkit- The serpents aren’t listening, hakmot-”

“It’s not even funny. How dare you aim for the serpents like that!”

“That’s right, my lord!”

Unless they showed the authority of the Sea God, who was stronger than Drake, they couldn’t control the serpents. Of course, the only one with that authority was the Sea God!

The excited Sea Bream also dismantled and dismembered the fleeing fishmen without hesitation. In no time, a school of fish gathered around Drake and Sea Bream. The marine ecosystem was nourished by these excellent prey, and the bodies of the fishmen spread throughout the underwater world.

Sea Bream casually defeated one fleeing fishman after another and smiled. If they didn’t intentionally charge, sea Bream could handle hundreds of them like this.

“Phew, my lord! The cleanup is done for now- Uh, where are you going, my lord?”

Sea Bream, who was reporting to Drake with a satisfied expression, was puzzled when Drake showed no interest.

He was moving with the Black Serpent and the White Serpent.

“Where are you going?”


“The reason the fishmen were born is because of the purification pool.”

“Yes, yes, oh! Ha Leeha-nim is there now.”

“Oh -”

When Drake showed interest and nodded, sea Bream’s expression brightened. Although he had said he wouldn’t come back when they were on the ship, now that he had returned, there must be a reason.

“Now… Are you coming back to the Dragon Palace? A-a-are you intending to fulfill the duty as the son of the Sea God this time?”

Sea Bream asked cautiously, but Drake didn’t answer. He only increased the speed slightly as he, along with the serpents, guarded the surroundings and headed for the entrance of the purification pool. The cautious inquiry yielded no response from Drake. The serpents and Drake maintained their vigilance, heading towards the entrance of the purification chamber. Sea Bream tried again, “My lord…?”

However, he always adhered to one principle: no matter how difficult and challenging the situation, he would provide hints for escape. NPCs engage in daily conversations and interactions even when there are no players, but they don’t engage in conversations about ‘hints’ unless player presence is confirmed, observing players thoroughly and causing them distress in a way.

“I believe you will surely do so. I trust that you have come to the Dragon Palace to save it and to correct the order of the sea as the successor of the Sea God.”

Therefore, even if Sea Bream tried to touch on Drake’s emotions by telling such stories, drake remained unresponsive. Tormented Sea God’s Guards Captain and the silent Sea God’s son created a peculiar and uneasy atmosphere as they reached the entrance of the purification pool.

“How long had it been since Leeha went in?”

“It’s been about one hour since he went in.”

“If he had gone with Anderson, he would have almost arrived at the purification pool.”

Drake’s expression stiffened slightly, and Sea Bream also became serious.

“Is that so? I haven’t actually been to the purification pool, so I don’t know how deep it is.”

“Where is Father? Do you know?”

“I’m sorry, my lord. I couldn’t figure out where the Sea God is. I tried to extract information from a few fishmen, but even they…”

Sea Bream, larger than Drake, looked serious. Once dignified when with Anderson, he couldn’t even move a muscle in front of Drake.

“I should recommend a replacement Sea God’s Guards Captain.”

Drake chuckled as he observed Sea Bream. Drake, who knew how much effort Sea Bream had put in, was not an ordinary NPC. Their memories were already detailed, so he could say such things.

“Yes, my lord?”


“Check it for yourself. My father is probably here—”

“Hmm?”

Shshaaaaah—!

The serpents wriggled and slightly retreated. They had noticed a red light flickering in the far darkness of the purification chamber.

“My lord, just now—”

“I saw it too. A red light. There shouldn’t be such a thing among the techniques my father uses— Wait!?”

This time, even Drake flinched. The explosively emitted white light, the enormous luminance, completely dispelled the deep darkness of the purification chamber, where fishmen would swim for over an hour to reach the surface.

“What… What kind of light is this?”

“Could it be… Has my father fought Ha Leeha? Or… did Leeha… to father?!”

For Drake, either situation was lamentable or inexplicable. Whichever it was, it wasn’t good.

“Let’s go, sea Bream!”

“Understood, my lord!”

Drake and Sea Bream quickly began to descend from the entrance of the purification pool. The Black and White Serpent followed behind them.

『Waterdrop Light』.”

Hwaaaa—!

Even the deep darkness of the purification chamber could not hinder Drake’s creation. The large water droplet created by Drake emitted light like a magic lantern.

“I didn’t know it was this big and deep.”

“Of course. My father forbade access to this place.”

“That’s still the case now.”

“Is there any other information about purification chamber pollution?”

“There isn’t. Besides the sudden appearance of fishmen one day… Sea God-nim seemed to know something, but…”

Engaging in a brief conversation about previously revealed information, they continued to swim downward. There was light, and there were Sea God’s Guards. Above all, they were NPCs. This meant there was no need for much delay in descending the deep hole of the purification pool. However, the speed at which Anderson descended, holding Lee Haa, was similar to theirs.

As admired by Sea Bream, anderson’s speed was at the level of the top mermaids. Therefore, despite the NPC status, there was no significant time difference in descending to discover the faint light beyond the darkness. It was undoubtedly the light emanating from the Sea God’s Crown.

“Father!”

“Sea God! Oh, great king!”

Floating in a weightless state, drake and Sea Bream quickly approached the Sea God, who was lying submerged in the water.

“Tentacles… and with this physique.”

The transformed appearance of the Sea God left even his son, drake, speechless. Sea Bream, too, trembled as he checked the condition of the Sea God. Accepting the Sea God’s death was something Sea Bream could not fathom, whether due to turning into a merman or any other reason.

“Great king, are you all right? Oh, oh, oh!”

“Don’t make a fuss, sea Bream. My father’s life is fine.”

“How can you be so casual, my lord?”

“Woah!”

Paaah—!

Suddenly, light spewed from the Sea God’s body.

Sea Bream startled and retreated, while Drake, preparing for any potential situation, didn’t see the feared outcome.

Or rather, what happened was the unexpected situation they were secretly hoping for.

“… What is this?”

“The tentacles… have disappeared.”

All the tentacles that surrounded the Sea God’s waist like a skirt vanished. The overly massive physique had returned to its original state, although still larger than Sea Bream.

“Could it be Ha Leea… or…”

“Hahaha! As expected… I need to tidy up like this.”

Seeing the gradually brightening light of his crown, was enough to predict the outcome.

Drake chuckled while looking at the darkness below, not yet fully revealed.

‘Purification pool, what is this… It looks like a heart.’

This was Leeha’s first impression as they finally reached the ocean floor. It emitted a red light by itself, moving rhythmically.

Thump, thump!

It was quite a rapid heartbeat, like a human heart.

‘Texture is like that. I thought it felt like some hard gem, but it’s, ugh, disgusting.’

After placing Blaugrunn and Anderson a bit away, Leeha began to circle around the purification pool. Although the size was close to a large rock, the red-glowing purification pool had a rather unsightly appearance, resembling the head of a mallet.

‘Ah, ah!? That thing-‘

Just as they were circling the squirming purification pool over a lap, something strange caught Lee Haa’s eyes. Something embedded in the smooth exterior of the purification pool!

It could be immediately recognized as the ‘pollutant’, the removal objective of this quest.

‘-A hat… is that… a black tricorn hat?’

The form of the black tricorn hat was exactly as Lee Haa had thought. In the deepest part of the sea, in a purification chamber where even constructed fishmen couldn’t enter recklessly, there was an out-of-place black hat? Was it really possible to come all the way here?

Lee Haa could immediately recall the owner of the hat upon seeing it.

‘Bluebeard… Is it something like what Luger showed before?’

A symbol yet not entirely a symbol. Lee Haa knew that he could create and wear a hat anytime. Since the moment Luger showed the hat, he kept it back in Ezwen’s Papal Chamber, including other appearances where he always wore a hat.

‘Right. Something has been off since then. Bluebeard wouldn’t buy a hat from the costume room.’

So, was he shaping the hat with mana? Lee Haa briefly pondered before shaking his head.

Regardless, it wasn’t important at this point.

“Blugrok!”

Lee Haa adjusted their breathing and took out the electric shock device again. They didn’t want to touch it with their hands because they didn’t know what might happen.

‘Even the plumber guy didn’t grab a boss with his hands when he beat it with a tortoise shell, right? Phew, this time there’s no need for a defense buff. Just—’

Bubbling!

Lee Haa spewed bubbles. Though the sound couldn’t be heard, the action was distinct.

“Here we go! ON!”

Just before the switch touched the hat embedded in the purification chamber’s exterior, it clicked and went up.

(To be continued…)
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 Pachichichichichit——-!

Leeha felt a tingling sensation running through his arm, and his peripheral vision darkened, but he didn’t stop.

‘More, more, more!’

An attack that required sacrificing his HP underwater! But without it, there was no other means of attack!

‘Uwaaaa, it stings! More than I thought!’

Tingling, tingling, tingling!

Enduring the strange and painful sensation, when about 1/4 of his vision had darkened, the black hat gradually faded and disappeared from the purification pool’s surface.

Splash-!

Simultaneously, a fanfare rang out and a bright light illuminated Leeha’s body.

『You have leveled up.』

『You have completed the Purification Pool Cleaning quest.』

『The affinity with all mermaid NPCs in the Dawn Sea has increased by 100%.』

『You have achieved 100% affinity with all mermaid NPCs in the Dawn Sea.』

Splash-!

And once again, fanfare rang out. Leeha’s lips naturally split into a grin.

“Hehehehe, it worked, it worked!”

Unable to determine how much time had passed in the darkness, Leeha was certain it was less than 12 hours, making him even happier.

“Now, if I quickly grab some items from the Dragon Palace and teleport, my mission will be over!”

The purification pool should now be completely back to normal. Compared to just a moment ago, the heartbeat was noticeably slower and steadier.

Thump… Thump… Thump…


After briefly checking, Leeha immediately turned towards Anderson and Blaugrunn.

Embracing the mermaid and the dragon, Leeha headed straight for the top of the purification pool. Smile never left his lips.

As they moved away from the purification pool, the light illuminating Leeha’s path gradually faded, and after about five minutes, complete darkness surrounded them again.

“Now, all I have to do is go up until the light from the Crown of the Sea God is visible. From there, grab what I need and get out—no, but if the purification pool is normal now, no more fishmen should be born. So, if the Sea God hasn’t awakened yet…”

Anderson and Blaugrunn alone made it hard to swim upwards, but what about the massive Sea God? Even dragging it up was difficult.

Moreover, if the Sea God hadn’t awakened yet, what would happen when the fishmen, who were supposed to disappear like bubbles, remained?

“Is this unnecessarily causing a massacre? What if the fishmen make a final move—”

Ploploplorororok!

As Leeha ascended through the darkness, he suddenly coughed, shocked by a strange sensation on his face.

“What is this? What is this—”

“Hmm? Leeha?”

It was at that moment, when Drake’s Waterdrop Light gradually approached, revealing what was touching Leeha’s face.

“Waaaaaahhhh—!”

If it wasn’t Middle Earth, he would have fainted 100%”. Experiencing the touch of a White Serpent’s head was no easy feat.

Kuuuuuu—!

The castle gate shook, and the mermaids behind trembled. The last mermaids who could participate in the battle, the Dragon Palace Castle Defense Captain, the Sea Shingeun Guard, the remaining troops of the security guard, etc. were mixed in large numbers, but there were far more fishmen outside than that.

“Hehe, hehe, don’t human gates kick up dust every time they’re attacked? Aren’t we fortunate not to have that?”

“What nonsense?! Stay alert! If this gate is breached, our families inside will be in danger! We have to hold on until Captain Sea Bream returns!”

The mermaid NPCs had no room for jokes in such a critical situation. Although the Defense Captain of the Dragon Palace tried to rally the other mermaids, morale did not rise easily.

“Damn it, are we still talking about that? Even if he could barely repel the pursuit of the fishmen, where would he get anyone from… Do you think humans will help us? Even if they do, can they come this far?”


“Shh, didn’t we agree not to say such things aloud?”

The mermaids were already in a near-giving-up situation. The central figure and backbone of the mermaid combat, the Sea God, had disappeared with the news of transforming into a fishman. The Guard Captain who escorted him also vanished secretly for a mission, and there was no news from him either.

The mermaids’ expressions darkened, but in contrast, the onslaught from the fishmen became even more ferocious. If it weren’t for the mermaid’s power alone but also the inherent defense of the Dragon Palace, they would have been wiped out by now.

…

As the pressure from the fishmen intensified, the mermaids suffered. A fight with no chance of winning, the terror of doing nothing and awaiting death. Some fishmen even wanted to break out.

“Ugh, let’s fight! Even if it ends up like this, it’s better to fight fiercely and die as heroes, right?”

“We can’t do that! Now that the Sea God is missing, our entire Sea God Guard considers the remaining kin as the Sea God and will protect them! We can’t take the risk of endangering the tribe!”

“That’s ridiculous; those idiots who have already broken can’t do anything—”

“Well, what?! Dare to call those who’ve fallen apart like that—”

“Hm?”

Kyuuuuuu—!

“Fishmen…? It sounds like screaming.”

The mermaids held their breath and listened. The screams of the fishmen were clearly heard in the waves carried by the seawater.

‘Save me Dalaki, run away!’

There was no way the mermaids would have missed the unique sound of gills trembling.

“Someone is… fighting against the fishmen.”

“Who… even the serpents are not under the control of the fishmen now—”

“What does it matter who it is? Let’s go. If someone is fighting against the fishmen, we should join them!”

“Who was it that just said not to go out?”

“The situation has changed! What do you think, defense Captain?”


The vice-captain of the Sea God Guard asked anxiously, possibly because he thought it was Sea Bream fighting outside.

“Well, good.”

The Guard Captain of the Sea God, the highest-ranked mermaid, looked around and prepared himself. Opinions varied, but everyone agreed that staying here wouldn’t improve the situation.

“Let’s go. Open the gate, open it! Let’s join forces with those outside and have the final showdown with the fishmen!”

Ooooooo—

Regardless of who it was, they assumed it was Sea Bream and decided to open the gate. Even though they didn’t know for sure, it seemed urgent.

“Let’s go. Open the gate, open it! Join forces with those outside and have the final showdown with the fishmen!”

Ooooooo—!

Regardless of who it was, they assumed it was Sea Bream and decided to open the gate. Even though they didn’t know for sure, it seemed urgent.

And finally, the moment the gate opened!

Shaaaaaatttt—!

『Hydro Cutter』.”

『Bubble Shot』! Where do you think you’re going, you slimy scoundrels!”

“I-I will help too, captain Sea Bream!”

The black and white serpents, drake, sea Bream, and Anderson were seen dominating the sea, striking fear upon the fishmen.

The fishmen were helpless and could hardly resist. The reason became apparent quickly.

“Yo-young master?! The Guard Captain of the Sea God—he is—”

“Spirits tainted by the mana of the sea! Return to the spirit realm, become foam again, and be purified!”

The fully restored Sea God swung his trident mightily. An incredibly powerful energy dispersed in a semicircle and any fishman touched by it was annihilated.

The mermaids were filled with astonishment and joy. They wanted to shout in celebration.

“-O King! Our king has returned- Aaack!?”

“Splish-splish… Splish?”

‘Hello, if you’re going to come out there, could I go in for a moment?’ If it weren’t for the sudden appearance of a human, they might have said something like that.

With an awkward smile, Leeha pointed inside the gate.

“Hehe… hehehe…”

Leeha lay in the guest room of the deserted Dragon Palace as if swimming, taking advantage of the fact that the Dragon Palace, being underwater, allowed for this somewhat strange way of moving.

“Much larger than I thought! And these ridiculous gems scattered around the Dragon Palace!”

He had heard about the special gems that only appeared around the Dragon Palace, but he couldn’t help but laugh inwardly.

“Because I’ve already picked some up! Haha, when I was fighting with the fishmen earlier, I put a few in my bag! If I give one to Bottleneck-ssi…”

He was thinking about how many more he could extract.

『Wamwamwam! Kyukyu! Kyukyukyu!』

“Is it delicious? Eat a lot. You must have used a lot of mana. Wipe off what’s on your mouth. Still, you’re a dragon hatchling so behave gracefully.”

『Kyukwang! Kyuwamwam-』

Without listening to Leeha’s words, blaugrun nodded his head and plunged his face back into the feast.

It was a natural reaction since he hadn’t had proper food for over 20 days.

“Steamed Shield Lobster, boiled Kraken legs, Giant Shellnut’s fresh liver… Certainly, these are foods I can’t cook. I wonder if they are treated like special experience points?”

The underwater-cooked dishes and steamed dishes surprised Leeha a bit, but after all, it was just using fire and water simultaneously, so it was not impossible. Above all, it was delightful to see Blaugrunn eating happily.

“Indeed, having leisure creates laughter. Ah! Shall I check the achievements now?”

With a smile, Leeha, who was floating in the guest room, finally opened the notification window and checked his achievements.

『Achievement: Resurrected Origin of the Sea (S-)』

Thank you! You have purified the ‘Origin’, overseeing all water spirits reborn from the sea. Without you, all seas would have been dominated by polluted water spirits and demonic life. The water spirits will never forget your grace, rescuing their lives and territory.

Reward: 21 Stat Points, blessing of the Elemental Spirits

You are the first registrant for the achievement of ‘Resurrected Origin of the Sea.’

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and 200% of the existing effect will be rewarded.

Effect: 42 Stat Points

“W-wow! It’s S-rank!”

Leeha cheered as he read the description. He could also understand that what the mermaids referred to as the ‘Purification Source’ was the origin overseeing all water spirits.

“Well, it makes sense if pure water spirits are born as mermaids there. It’s like a womb that conceives water spirits.”

Leeha nodded his head.

He wanted to check the buffs first, but one more achievement remained.

『Achievement: Under the Sea (A+)』

Congratulations! You have achieved 100% intimacy with the previously undiscovered fantastical race, the mermaids! These beings, who dominate the depths of the sea, will gladly assist you in many ways for the sake of their ‘human friend.’ Of course, your ‘human friends’ will also find it smooth to move around in their territory!

Reward: Agility +14, health +4, skill – Acquired ability: Mermaid Transformation

You are the first registrant for the 『Under the Sea』 achievement.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and 200% of the existing effect will be rewarded.

Effect: Agility +28, health +8

“Wow! An intimacy achievement! I thought it was only for dragons! And they even give a skill?”

Generally, achieving 100% intimacy with a race that favors humans would grant continent-wide fame. If they were human NPCs, it would only add to the contributions to that specific country. However, it was evident that the race of ‘mermaids’ ’was receiving different treatment in the Middle Earth.

Leeha marveled at the substantial increase in stats and, with a satisfied grin, opened each description window for more details.

(To be continued…)
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 『Mermaid Transformation』

Description: Pure water spirits assist their friends in becoming ‘pure water spirits’ themselves. You can joyfully stroll underwater with various choices for different body parts and types!

Effect: Mermaid Transformation

Mana: –

Duration: Until canceled

Cooldown: 24 hours

The first skill from the Under the Sea achievement!

Even without grades or levels, Leeha could quickly grasp the performance of the skill by reading its name and description.

“There might not be another quest like this… Anyway, great! Mermaid Transformation!”

Without hesitation, Leeha activated the skill! Blaugrunn, who was still burying his face in the dish, consuming his meal, momentarily turned back, sensing the unfamiliar mana.

“Please choose the transformation areas.”

『Head/Upper Body Entirety/Arms/Lower Body Entirety/Feet』

“Huh?”

Leeha tilted his head in confusion. He thought it would just transform into a mermaid without any choices. Selecting? Even the head?

“The head? What’s the point of transforming the head? Isn’t it supposed to be like a mermaid? Of course, the entire lower body!”

The goal is to become a mermaid. Naturally, having the same form as a mermaid would be preferable. Leeha decisively chose the entire lower body without hesitation.

“Choose the transformation type.”

『Flatfish Family/Cod Family/Mackerel Family/Eel Family/Squid Family』

“What is this, a fish market or something?”

The subsequent choices were even more bewildering. Flounder? Sea bream? The names of various marine creatures came to mind, and Leeha soon realized that this would transform the chosen part into a marine creature from the selected category.


“Tuna species would be mackerel, right? It’s a blue fish—”

At least, it was clear that it wouldn’t be something like a flounder or sea bream, but rather a high-finned fish. After a brief consideration, Leeha chose the mackerel family! The blue mana particles gathered around, witnessing the infiltration of his lower body.

Shaaaah!

“Oh, wow! Amazing! Blaugrunn, look at this! Look!”

『Kyuuu, Kyuuu?! Kyuuu, Kyuuu, Kyuuu! Kyuuu, Kyuuu!』

And then, Leeha could see his lower body transformed into something similar to the appearance of the mermaids around him.

In the underwater world, he could talk and swim!

The sensation of movement was distinctly different from using legs, but adaptation came quickly.

“Hahaha! What is this! If I chose ‘Transformation Part: Head’ and ‘Transformation Type: Squid’, what on earth would happen?”

『Kyuuu, Kyuuu, Kyuuu! Kyuuu, Kyuuu!』

Shwooosh!

Leeha made comical movements, imagining the absurdity.

With a skill that consumed no mana, he could use it as much as he wanted. Compared to other skills in Middle Earth, these conditions seemed like a kind of privilege.

“C-cough. Uh… Hi-hi, everyone.”

“Wow! Sea Bream-nim!”

“There, everywhere, dancing like synchronized swimming in this guest room… Your Majesty, receiving a gift from the Lord of Water Spirits is wonderful, but this is the Dragon Palace, so could you… please calm down a bit?”

“Sorry, sorry. It’s just that I got a little carried away… because I’m feeling so good.”

“I know how pleasant it is to become one with the water spirits.”

Sea Bream didn’t seem surprised at Leeha’s behavior; instead, he wore a warm smile. Amidst this, Leeha didn’t overlook the keyword Sea Bream mentioned.

“The Lord of Spirits…? Is there something already existent and embodied?”


There was no more time to ponder. For now, all that mattered was to remember the keywords. Once a keyword surfaced, it would likely be followed by a chain of connections in the world of Middle Earth. Despite receiving tremendous achievements and stats, the real rewards would unfold from this point onward.

“The preparations of the Sea God and the Commander are complete. Let’s go.”

“Ah… understood. Let’s go, blaugrun!”

『Kyuu, kyuuu!』

The bloated Bronze Dragon Hatchling snorted, making a snorting sound as it climbed onto Leeha’s shoulders. Leeha quickly swam following Sea Bream, rolling his head rapidly.

‘Now, what treasures should I grab? What might be there?’ Leeha examined his items. He currently had no upper clothing, but Drake’s Coat was worn by the ship’s helmsman. So, the upper clothing is probably unnecessary, and he could just take it back. The hat has an item from Harpies that ignores wind direction and speed. Shoes also have a skill called 『Joint Stiffness: Lower Body.』 But the pants? Leeha wore beginner pants without any options!

“Maybe I should have paid more attention to pants. I ignored them because they were covered in a long coat. Now, look at this situation.”

Leeha realized that equipment items in Middle Earth not only made the appearance cool but also had effects beyond that. He didn’t feel the need because of his overwhelmingly strong attack power and the skill to back it up.

“Maybe, not wearing trousers and shoes is fine when you’re swimming like a mermaid? Still, I’m getting the bonus effects.”

Seeing his current form without trousers and shoes, Leeha laughed, considering that he might not need them when walking around like a mermaid. He receives the bonus effects even though he doesn’t wear trousers or shoes.

“Anyway, I should pay more attention to pants and shoes. Even if you get the bonus effects, there’s no need to feel inferior.”

Seeing his current form, Leeha chuckled. Sea Bream looked at him with a slightly suspicious look, but it was just a friendly gesture. Sea Bream was also included in the 100% familiarity with all mermaids.

“Haee, underwater, this form is quite convenient. Is there a need for trousers or shoes?”

Looking at his current form without trousers and shoes, Leeha laughed. Sea Bream briefly looked at Leeha with a slightly doubtful expression, but it was a sign of affection. Being included in the 100% familiarity with all mermaids, sea Bream was already familiar.

“Cough, sir Ha Leeha.”

“Oh, yes?!”

“Are you ready?”

“Ready? What do I need to prepare?”

Did he mean preparing to choose items? When Leeha tilted his head, sea Bream showed a sly smile. So far, the place Leeha followed Sea Bream seemed to be an endless corridor.

“Have you prepared for the cheers of all mermaids?”


Sea Bream asked, not just about the items. With a loud voice, sea Bream opened the door.

“Prepare for the cheers of all mermaids!”

Quaaang!

The wide-open door flooded with a brilliant blue light, so intense that Leeha had to squint for a moment.

“Whoa?!”

Seeing Leeha’s reaction, sea Bream playfully shouted once again. By the time Leeha slowly opened his eyes again, it was done.

“Oh king! Ha Leeha-nim is here!”

Sea Bream shouted proudly, singing it like it was his accomplishment. The response came instantly, echoing in the surroundings.

“Waaaaah——!

Ha— Leee— ha—!

Ha— Leee— ha—!

The surrounding seawater vibrated because Leeha’s name was systematically chanted which almost made the Dragon Palace explode. Due to the cheering of Leeha’s name, the surrounding seawater vibrated. The vibrations of the sea, sounding like ooh, ah, woong, directly touched Leeha’s skin.

A “vibration” that Leeha had not experienced even in Fibiel’s royal palace before the national war or the grand square of Ezwen before the expedition to the new continent. The cheers of the mermaids spreading through the sea created a completely different sensation from the shouts on the ground.

“Wow…”

That was all Leeha could say. Besides the touching cheers of the mermaids, the unfamiliar sight unfolding before him had a lot to do with it.

“Let’s go in, sir Ha Leeha.”

“Ah… Yes…”

The underwater palace was undoubtedly different from the palaces on the ground. When Leeha followed Sea Bream inside, it wasn’t just a simple room.

It wasn’t a simple room that Leeha entered with Sea Bream. It was a massive spherical hall filled from the bottom to the top with mermaids, and at the upper front of the hall, a giant throne could be seen!

Apart from the cheering mermaids and the dazzling stones illuminating the hall, the structure of the hall was undoubtedly different from the above-water palaces.

The “Dragon King’s Chamber” was composed of three-dimensional circles. As Sea Bream and Leeha entered, the door closed.

With a kuong sound, the mermaids closed their mouths instantly. The “path” connected to the door was straight and extended.

Even without fences, it was straight down the underwater cliff. When Leeha peeked his head from the edge of the platform, the mermaids below were looking up at him.

As the path ended, and Leeha raised his head, he could see the throne where the Sea God was. Next to the Sea God stood a Bronze Drake, and behind the Sea God, there were Black Serpent and White Serpent.

Leeha realized that every eye in 360 degrees, up and down, left and right, was focused on him.

“Our friend, sir Ha Leeha.”

The Sea God’s attire was splendid.

The Triple Spear’s edge became sharper, and the Crown’s light grew stronger. Despite the reduced stature after transforming into a mermaid, the Sea God’s majesty appeared even more overwhelming to Leeha.

With a concept firmly in mind, Leeha greeted, “I am honored to see you in good health, lord of the Seas.”

Kneeling was not possible due to the absence of knees, so Leeha expressed respect by bowing the upper body. The Sea God, drake, and Sea Bream, all behind Leeha, wore satisfied smiles.

Leeha sensed that the rank of the items he would receive had increased.

****

“The fishmen have disappeared.”

“Haa… haa… Where did they go?”

The players who had faced the fishmen for almost three days without rest were exhausted to the point of misinterpreting Fernand’s words.

“No! Not coming, the opposite! The mermaids—they’re not chasing us anymore! A whisper from Jin Gonggong- nim!”

Fernand shouted triumphantly, looking out to the open sea. A giant polymorphed from a fast-flying bird descended from the sky to the New-Serpent ship.

“Kikit, really gone?”

“Yes, yes! They seemed to be slowing down since earlier, and then suddenly, they completely disappeared!”

“They are not trying to bring more Kraken again, right? I’m really tired… and even running out of arrows.”

Bobae couldn’t contain herself and walked heavily, eventually leaning against the mast.

Since Hyein’s teleportation, team A had been dealing with the fishmen. Despite three days and nights in Middle Earth time, considering the time spent logged in before that, they were mentally exhausted for several days in real-time.

“Is it really gone?”

“Yes, it’s completely gone! Even before, it felt like they were slowing down, and then poof, they were gone!”

Bobae spoke, and others looked at her with disbelief.

“I’m serious! They just vanished into thin air!”

Fernand, who had been observing the sea, was delighted.

“Hehe, finally gone.”

With that, team A, who had been under constant pressure, breathed a sigh of relief.

“This time… it’s real.”

“What do you mean?”

“The fishmen won’t come forward anymore.”

“How do you know, Kidd?”

Shuwaah! During Fernand’s question, there was a flash of light by Kidd’s side. Not only the New Serpent Ship but also the players of the Blue Marlin Ship couldn’t comprehend what was happening.

And two players who could ‘understand’ this unbelievable fact had met each other to confirm it.

“Kidd!”

“Have you seen it, Luger?”

“That… that damn guy, after all—”

“Yes. Hoo… hoo… Kidd, he has done it.”

Kidd took off his hat, placed it next to him, and lay down on the deck. The notification window still displayed the friends’ windows for the Three Musketeers. Kidd, checking Luger’s location next to him, also saw the position where there was water underneath Luger.

Probably from Luger’s perspective, the position under Kidd, the same location as Kidd sees, would be displayed.

『Dawn Sea – The Territory of the Dragon Palace – Dragon Palace Dragon King’s Room』

“HaLeeha did it.”

“Damn it… Kidd, that son of a—”

Two other Three Musketeers, checking Leeha’s location, couldn’t speak any longer, overwhelmed with joy, envy, regret, gratitude, and awe mixed together.

And there was another person who couldn’t just stand there while hearing Leeha’s name.

“Leeha hyung? What did Leeha do, Kidd-nim?”

“He cleared the mermaid quest.”

“Wow?! The mermaid quest—what’s that? That purification thing? And Leeha hyung cleared it?”

Kijung’s eyes widened. Unlike Kidd and Luger, the robust voice of the tank resonated throughout the New Serpent Ship. And upon hearing about quest completion, players who reacted gathered around.

“Who did what?”

“Ha Leeha-nim? Leeha cleared the mermaid quest? How?”

“Come to think of it, the sky is strange too! Not just the typhoon we erased, but all the other typhoons from the other side are disappearing!”

(To be continued…)
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 The majority of reactions were the same. It was hard to believe the news of completing the quest without a single piece of decent equipment. However, some users’ reactions were a bit different.

“Hehe, well… if something like that happens, at least send a whisper.”

“He is suffering because of me for nothing…”

“As expected of Oppa.”

Biyemi, Rubini, ramhwajung, and others believed in Leeha’s achievements without any doubt. Bobae, who had come near Kijung, tilted his head for a moment upon hearing Rubini’s words, but at this point, he couldn’t say anything to her.

“So, what happens now? Is the boring fishing trip finally over?”

“Wahaha! The Mystic! Absolutely! He did it! Leeha hyung! He did it! Bobae-ssi! Bobae-ssi!”

“Gag! Oh my, Kijung-ssi?!”

Kijung was jumping with excitement. He approached Bobae, grabbed her arms, and started dancing strangely, making awkward movements with their waists. The sight of the two, with their awkward yet humorous movements, spread laughter throughout the New Serpent. The big and bright laughter even reached the Blue Marlin, making Alexander and Bailephus smile, and it was enough to make Chiyou tear her hair out.

‘How?! How on earth? No, it can’t be. Drake said he wouldn’t go. Even if he did, the timing wouldn’t have matched. Did Ha Leeha have some other weapon? That dragon? Did the bronze Dragon grow? Is that how lucky he is? The purification pool? How did it appear? How did he enter the Dragon Palace? Damn it, damn it, fUCK!’

She had practically missed everything in front of her own eyes. Certainly, she had decided not to let her guard down in 1v1 situations. Accepting the mermaid quest was akin to going to one’s death, at least that was what Chiyou thought. Even watching Leeha confidently speak about what he could do, Chiyou couldn’t help but feel a sense of unease.

‘That self-assured attitude, that crazy attitude like he’s going to come out of a dream, I should have been more cautious! Ahhh! I’ve experienced it! I’ve experienced that guy from the National War to now, no, from the time of Hwahong and Byulcho, experiencing him missing such important information so carelessly!’

As the leader of the top-ranking information guild, shinobi Gumi, Chiyou felt a wound to her pride more painful than a simple loss of gold. While the other users on the Blue Marlin were laughing at Leeha’s news, Chiyou was in a corner, practically tearing her hair out in frustration.

‘I will never miss it. I’ll stick close and extract everything thoroughly, Ha Leeha.’

The dancer’s eyes trembled, wide open. The unintended blow to her pride by Leeha was that significant. She was so absorbed in her thoughts that she didn’t even consider the possibility of a fencer watching her.

‘Something is still strange…’

Shin Nara shook her head and skillfully concealed herself.

Kijung: Hyung! Eong-ah! What the, you completed the quest?! Shin Nara: Leeha-ssi! If anything happens, you said to tell me! You, you forgot again!

Kidd: What item are you going to get? Well, my hat is a bit worn out…”

Luger: Heh, Kidd isn’t the only one who needs a hat. If you don’t want your head to explode, take care of my shoes too.”


Ram Hwajung: Oppa, look…

Lee Jiwon: Hyungnim, you can share your achievements, right? At least an A+ rank, right?”

‘Huh?’

Leeha missed some of the Sea God’s words for a moment due to the flood of whispers. The Sea God praised Leeha’s work in restoring the purification pool, improving the relationship between mermaids and humans, which was severed a long time ago, and how Leeha was a treasure to the mermaids. And at such an important moment, people started whispering to him.

Leeha had to quickly send whispers to each person, saying that he would contact them later. With the overwhelming flood of whispers, he couldn’t help but miss a crucial word during the important conversation.

‘If it were Ram Hwayeon, she could handle everything simultaneously, but I’m not her! But it seems like Ram Hwajung said something. What did she say?’ Although Leeha missed a crucial word due to the overwhelming whispers, he decided to ask her to repeat it.

“Therefore, I want to give you a gift from our Dragon Palace’s treasury. Normally, I’d let you choose directly… but this time, I personally selected it for you.”

“Huh? What? What?”

What?

Focusing on the whispers, Leeha missed what was said on this side! Leeha did his best to grasp the current situation.

The Sea God, with a slow swaying of his tail, descended from his throne towards Leeha. Unlike Drake, who had both human legs and a dragon tail, the Sea God’s lower half was just like an ordinary fish, despite being the father of Drake. The Trident floated next to him, even though he wasn’t holding it.

What the Sea God was holding was something of a similar color to the water, with a translucent and somewhat transparent feel.

“A cloth…? No, it’s a bit too transparent to be cloth… What is it? Chilled jellyfish?”

It was highly unlikely, but Leeha had a bad feeling. Instinctively, he understood the meaning of the words he faintly heard at the end: “Personally chosen.”

“I give this to you.”

“This, it seems a bit too precious for me. Instead, I’d rather choose something suitable for my level from the leader’s treasury…”

“If you say that, sir Ha Leeha! Are you going to ignore the Sea God’s favor right now?”

“No, it’s not like that! No, if I receive this, can I choose something else from the leader’s store that suits my level?”

“I don’t think you can think of anything else! Because nothing in the leader’s treasury can compare to this! Because the Sea God personally—”

“Stop it, sea Bream. You can say such things because you’re the closest friend. Isn’t that right?”


The Sea God stopped Sea Bream from getting too excited. Furthermore, judging by the comments of the guard captain Sea Bream, Leeha could tell that once he accepted it, it would be over.

“Ugh… Yeah, you’re right, sea God-nim. I made a mistake because I don’t yet have a clear understanding of the Dragon Palace and the sea.”

“Hmmm, it’s okay.”

The sea god nodded kindly and lifted the object he was holding. All eyes of the mermaids were focused there.

“I am the king who leads all mermaids, and the ruler of this sea, to my human compatriots who risked their lives for us water spirits-”

“Then, Ha Leeha, I suggest sharing the power of the water spirits with you. If anyone among the tribe has objections, speak now!”

The sea god took a deep breath and spoke in a loud voice. In the Dragon King’s room, which was designed as a sphere, his voice ‘reverberated through the water’ and even echoed.

“I propose to share the power of the water spirit. If anyone in the clan has a different opinion, speak up now!” No mermaid answered the sea god’s cry. Silence signified agreement. It meant that all discussions had already concluded.

“When I could only see the form of Le, I saw you handling the power of the fire spirits. Ifrit, that guy, would tell you a story or something.”

“… Uh, pardon?”

“When you, who is closer to us, see Ifrit playing around, how could we stand idly by? Come on, take it.”

Leeha momentarily tilted his head, but within the quietness of the purified chamber, he could vaguely recall what the Sea God had said.

‘Kuma! When he saw Kuma he talked about the power of the fire spirits… Is that it? Is Ifrit the name of a fire spirit? Or is it something else related to fire spirits? What’s the deal?’

Even though he didn’t fully comprehend it, Leeha couldn’t just ignore the outstretched hand of the Sea God.

Leeha extended both hands to receive the offered item.

‘Uh, this is my quest reward! My pants! My item—’

“Woaaaah?!”

He exclaimed as he received the item. The squishy and damp sensation of the item enveloped his arms like sticky rice cake!

“Whoa, whoa, what’s this? What is this?!”

“Hahaha, it seems like Koma really likes you. Well done.”


“Perhaps due to an extreme familiarity with the water spirits.”

“Hmmm. Hahaha, who would have thought that a human would be followed like this?”

Observing Leeha’s surprised expression, the Sea God displayed a satisfied look. With Drake stepping forward to make a comment, Leeha had no chance to ask questions.

Witnessing this, sea Bream raised his weapon. Even in the Dragon King’s Chamber, being able to carry a weapon was a privilege. The roar of the Sea God’s Guardian Captain was met with cheers from all the merfolk.

“As of this moment, we declare the human Leeha as a member of the water spirits and a member of the Undine tribe!”

Waaaah! Hiii— He—

Hiiii— Ha—

Ha— Hi— Ha—

‘Wait a minute! What is this—’

“Huh? Uh, isn’t this—this thing equipped with eyes, nose, and mouth?! It’s not even a slime, what is this?”

Leeha tried to remove the clearly strange entity wrapped around his arm, but it was impossible.

“This one’s name is Jellypong. Please take care of me from now on.”

So, what the heck is this?!

While Drake congratulated Leeha, the person directly involved, Leeha, stood dazed, not knowing what to do. Jellypong, the entity that made Leeha flustered, was not explained yet, and Leeha had to stand there bewildered.

『Acquired Legendary Meta-Elemental: ‘Jellypong’.』

Even with just the name ‘Legendary’, it was a satisfactory item. Whether it could be called an item was still questionable.

『Kyu, Kyu!』

『Mongg, mongg, mongg…』

『Kyuflower! KyuKyuu〜?』

『Mong, mong… Mong, mong, mong…』

Blaugrunn was fluttering around with Jellypong, having fun. Unlike slimes, Jellypong had an unpredictable form, extending on one side and suddenly contracting, creating shapes like a ball at times. With each transformation, blaugrun laughed as if finding it incredibly amusing. Leeha pointed at them and asked, “So, that is the water spirit itself and some kind of armor?”

“That’s right. Just by having it on, it will protect you.”

After the farewell in the Dragon King’s Chamber, Leeha and Drake were now discussing things in a smaller room.

“And when you command it to, it can detach and attack enemies in their current forms.”

“Of course. I don’t know about the power of water spirits, but with your power, you might not even need Jellypong’s attacks.”

“Hmm…”

If Drake was confident enough to boast, there was likely some truth to it. However, Leeha still couldn’t fully trust it.

‘Meta-water spirit… Does it mean something beyond the concept of a water spirit? No, a water spirit recognizes a water spirit? This explanation sounds like it’s from some philosophical book, but the name is Jellypong?! This can’t be a joke!”

However, it was evident that this was not an ordinary item. An item that could be worn without restrictions on equipment slots—where could you find something like this in the gaming world? Even transforming into an attack form when detached from the armor?

‘Legendary-level, but there’s something strange about it. It’s beyond strange, it’s crazy. How can it change from that appearance to an attack form? What can you possibly deduce from this?’

Somewhere between a living being and an item, a ‘something.’ Leeha looked at Jellypong with some relief, at least grateful that it had a name.

“But what about its attack power? It looks like a slime, so somehow it’s not very trustworthy…”

“Slime? Hah, don’t say that in front of Jellypong. Despite its appearance, it’s a water spirit infused with my father’s essence. If it were born as a mermaid, it would have stood shoulder to shoulder with Sea Bream instantly.”

The mention of essence caught Leeha’s attention. Kijung mentioned drinking Drake’s essence for an achievement.

“Moreover, the essence of the sea god? Well, that’s a bit much to absorb, isn’t it?”

He decided to ask Drake about it, curious about anything else.

“But, about what the sea god mentioned – what was it again? What is that?”

“I heard it from my father. The Fire Bear and Soul Mate.”

“Well, yes, but the Fire Bear isn’t a spirit of fire. There seems to be some confusion.”

“No, that’s not it.”

“Really?”

Kuma inherited the field boss ‘Fire Bear.’

(To be continued…)
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 Until then, Koma was an ordinary bear, but during the absence of the field boss, he, the strongest in the vicinity, took over the position directly. However, how could that be possible? Leeha didn’t know, but NPCs did.

“Much like how you made a contract with that bear and the spirit, that bear also made a contract with the spirit of fire. Well, seen in that light, the spirit of fire might not have directly seen you.”

“Ah…! That’s what it meant.”

Half-spirit. Leeha recalled the exact term that the Sea God mentioned.

“And you don’t need to doubt Jellypong’s abilities. Its appearance will also change as it grows alongside you.”

“Grows?”

“Both in abilities and appearance. From my perspective, I prefer its current appearance.”

Leeha nodded in surprise at Drake’s taste(?).

“Blaugrunn will also change in rank and appearance. It’s inevitable if it’s a spirit. Look at Anderson and Sea Bream; they’re both mermaids, but their appearances are different. If Jellypong is also a water spirit, its appearance changing is natural. As my thoughts reached that point, I suddenly became curious.”

“Um… Is it possible for that Fire Bear to change its appearance?”

“Hmm?”

“The Fire Bear made a contract with the Spirit of Fire, right? Then, could the appearance of the Fire Bear also—”

“Has it never changed before?”

“Is that possible!?”

“I can’t say for sure, but it’s likely. Spirits are collections of elements, and as the power of the elements strengthens, their true forms may change.”

“Wow!?”

Could even the appearance of Kuma change!? Leeha suddenly realized the importance of this mermaid quest. How many pieces of information could he obtain? What if he had ignored it? Or if he had died after estimating the location of the New Continent? He would never have achieved the same result.

‘Now, I need to discuss this with the expedition members when I return. Haha, it was daunting at first, but the rewards are tremendous. I can’t believe I hesitated. Sacrificial quest, my foot! Anyway, it’s not for everyone! Isn’t this Middle Earth?!’

Leeha was so delighted that he even teased his colleagues on the ship.

“Any more questions?”


“… I have one last suggestion.”

“I have no intention of going back. I have a contract with my king. Staying here also requires further discussion with my father.”

“Does that mean neither here nor there is an option?”

“For now… yes.”

Why was it so complicated? However, if you weren’t a user raised in Kraven’s seas, you wouldn’t understand the intricacies.

“If you return to the Old Continent… when the king of Kraven asks you to return, will you come then?”

“Can you guarantee the future?”

“Okay, I understand. We’ll talk about it when the time comes.”

Leeha knew Drake was necessary for Kraven. After everything is over, what if he convinced the King of Kraven and came back here and took Drake? His relationship with Kraven would increase tremendously. Of course, the reward would also be tremendous.

“Then I will go now.”

It’s already been over 15 hours since entering the Dragon Palace’s waters. It’s approaching the 24th day. The time limit for Leeha is already at its limit.

“Do you need me to take you back? The distance must have widened considerably even without me.”

“Kik, there are plenty of capable people even without Captain Drake. Don’t worry. Ah! If my teleportation doesn’t work then, I might ask for your help.”

Drake chuckled at Leeha’s joke, and seeing his face, Leeha extended his hand.

“Thank you for everything, captain.”

“I’m no longer a captain.”

“People from Kraven, users – they said such things. Once a captain—”

“…always a captain.”

“I believe you’ll come back someday.”

“Thanks.”


They exchanged a handshake, and for a moment, their eyes met.

“Now, blaugrun and Jellypong! Let’s go!”

『Kyuu! Kyuu! Kyuu!』

Upon Leeha’s words, the two pets found their positions—Blaugrunn above Leeha’s head and Jellypong attached like a vest to his upper body.

‘Summoning the Kuma here makes it a complete family.’

Leeha suppressed a laugh bubbling up and opened the skill window.

“Do you need to check on Anderson and Sea Bream before you go?”

“Nah, just send my regards. It might be embarrassing otherwise.”

“Alright then.”

“Now, I’m really off. Take care!”

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

『Monmon…』

As Blaugrunn and Jellypong greeted Drake, Leeha released the mermaid transformation and used the Chain Teleport: Three Musketeers.

Swoooosh—!

“Take care on your journey. May luck accompany you on the challenging path ahead.”

As Leeha disappeared, drake quietly spoke.

23 days and 15 hours into the Dragon Palace’s waters, and 66 days overall since entering Kraven’s harbor.

“Musketeer Ha Lee! Returning after completing the mission in the Dragon Palace!”

“Wow, ahhhh! Eung-ahhh!”

Ha Leeha returned to the New Serpent ship. At this point, there were about 13 hours left until Sage Hyein’s B-team Time Limit.


Although the ships, which had not stopped even when the fishmen appeared, slowed down a bit upon Leeha’s return, it was mainly because everyone, including the users from the Blue Marlin, had come to the New Serpent ship to greet Leeha and get the updated information.

“So, everything is back to normal?”

“Yes. The Sea God has returned to normal, and the purification pool has been restored. The mermaids can no longer be born since we killed them all near the Dragon Palace. There won’t be any more attacks.”

“Oh, finally, I can relax now.”

Kijung exaggeratedly sighed and gestured, prompting laughter from those around him.

Of course, the relief stemmed from the fact that they no longer had to face the mermaids.

In this atmosphere, the only one with a less bright face was Rubini.

Even without seeing her eyes due to the bandage, it was clear that she was making an uneasy expression.

“But really… What if the fishmen come back?”

Her skill didn’t display fishmen. Fishmen, who nullified the existence of the occupation itself, were enemies Rubini didn’t want to face. It was natural for her to be on high alert.

Leeha also knew this to some extent, so he playfully responded to reassure Rubini.

“Yes, even if they want to come, they can’t. There are no remaining fishmen. I saw the serpents decimate the fishmen around the Dragon Palace. You experienced it, right? How strong their attacks are.”

“Ugh, eung-ah! It hurts! You’re making it sound so light. I really got hit the hardest-!”

“No, not that… Weren’t there fishmen who left while chasing after us?”

“Huh? Weren’t they all killed?”

Leeha and Kijung looked at each other. When was the perfect time when the fishmen, who had surrounded the Dragon Palace near the recovery of the purification pool and the normalization of the Sea God, would have completely disappeared?

Did the fishmen stop chasing the ships and return to the Dragon Palace as soon as the purification pool was restored and the Sea God was normal? If that was the case, the fishmen killed by Leeha, Hyein, drake, serpents, and others would be all of them.

But what if it wasn’t the case?

If the ships were still being chased, Leeha, who didn’t know that fact, naturally believed that they had killed all the fishmen, which was Kijung’s illusion.

“Kikik, it makes sense. We can’t be sure about the exact timing…”

“Uh, um… Anyway, since the purification pool has been restored, and the Sea God has returned to normal, we can assume that the number of fishmen won’t increase anymore, right?”

“But the contamination was done by Bluebeard. If Bluebeard does something again…”

Kijung glanced at Bailephus as he trailed off. The gold dragon nodded as if it understood Kijung’s concern.

“It’s not impossible. However, if the purification pool owned by the UndineTribe is truly the ‘Origin of the Sea’, there won’t be many of them. If Le has already crossed this sea, there’s nothing he can do now.”

So, did it mean he could do something later?

The ominous feeling among the expedition members lingered, but no one dared to voice their concerns openly.

“It’s certain that the Sea God knew about Bluebeard. The ‘guy spreading contamination and corruption.’ As soon as there was something wrong with the purification pool, the Sea God suspected Bluebeard. Not only the purification pool, but he said that wherever that guy passed would be affected… Damn, let’s hope nothing unusual happens on this voyage.”

Although they had managed to create a situation to safely cross this voyage immediately, no one wanted to think about future anxieties at this point. As the atmosphere suddenly became tense, a user who had been quietly listening stepped forward. It was Hook from Kraven.

“Ahem! By the way, what about Captain Drake? He said he won’t be staying there, right? Eung, you said he wouldn’t go back to the Dragon Palace.”

“Oh! I don’t know about that yet. There seems to be some issue with the Sea God and a solution to it… He didn’t mention going back to the Kraven Kingdom immediately. But we’ll see.”

Kraven’s Hook formed a fist, and he looked serious.

What expectations did he have when he heard that Drake, along with the Serpents, came to help? However, from Leeha’s perspective, who didn’t know about the fact that the ships were still being chased, he could only deliver the news that Drake wasn’t returning to Kraven for now.

The only thing certain at the moment was that Drake wasn’t going back.

Hook nodded as if he understood Kraven’s concerns.

“Well, I guess so. You’re not one of our ship’s crew, so you wouldn’t know about the relationship. If Drake doesn’t take the position of the supreme commander in Kraven, what will happen? Our royal palace might explode.”

“Well, I don’t know. You’re not even a pirate. It would be better if Captain Hook took all the pirate kids and became the supreme commander. Isn’t that better? Or maybe take this opportunity to aim for the king?”

“What? What are you saying, you idiot!”

Kraven probably had his internal circumstances. It seemed that he understood that Leeha could only convey the news that Drake wasn’t returning to Kraven for now.

Laughter, banter, and jokes were exchanged between the users as they watched the Kraven users. Except for one person.

Chiyou had an attitude of not missing any news, even the tiniest bit, as she was involved in Leeha’s surroundings.

“As expected, Ha Leeha-ssi is amazing. I’ve always thought so since the national war.”

“Well… Yes, well, it’s just…”

“Heung, so… Didn’t you say you’ve got some items? You should brag at times like this. Right? What did you get?”

Chiyou increased the volume of her voice along with a crescent-shaped eye smile. While some male users showed satisfied smiles at her playful charm, Leeha was not one of them.

Although it couldn’t be definitively confirmed that Chiyou was an enemy, she remained a candidate. It was something that didn’t need to be explicitly mentioned.

“No, before that. I don’t fundamentally like that kind of playfulness.”

Leeha showed a clear sign of displeasure, but Chiyou didn’t back down.

“Aeh, Leeha is just shy. Is it because that appearance is cute? Huhu.”

“Hey, sorry, but don’t unnecessarily create discord within the expedition, Chiyou.”

“Oh my? Create discord?”

The one who intervened was Shin Nara.

Chiyou pretended to be surprised with bunny eyes wide open.

“Well, you know. It’s about not casually disclosing information like items, achievements, or levels even on Middle Earth. It’s common knowledge even for beginner users. Why ask about it and risk making the atmosphere weird?”

Was it because Chiyou seemed suspicious? Because she saw Chiyou’s troubled reaction to the successful news of his quest?

No, it wasn’t for those reasons.

It was because she couldn’t stand looking at the girl being referred to as ‘our Leeha.’

“Didn’t Shin Nara-ssi say that this expedition to the new continent needs to unite as one to clear it? Even if I hear such information, it’s not like I can do the quest now… Is it such a big deal?”

(To be continued…)
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 “That’s not it…”

“It isn’t? Who doesn’t know that you two are secretly meeting as if on a date? Huhut, I don’t know if dating during such an important quest isn’t ‘promoting chaos’. Well, even on the New Serpent, there seemed to be two people engaged in such romance. Isn’t that acceptable?”

Chiyou had already suspected the relationship between Leeha and Shin Nara. Moreover, during this expedition, their complex relationship was evident enough.

Although Leeha and Shin Nara didn’t meet frequently, Chiyou, by symmetrically comparing their uncertain relationship to the confirmed relationship between Kijung and Bobae, was treating it as if it were an established fact. It wasn’t a logical debate but rather a verbal brawl, tearing down and disparaging each other, where Chiyou was almost unbeatable.

Especially now, Shin Nara’s face was turning red, and she was clearly getting angry.

“Ro- Romance?! What- What are you talking about? Have you said enough now, Chiyou-ssi?”

“Stop it. Chiyou-ssi was just curious about the items. But this time, it seems like Shin Nara-ssi is reacting too sensitively.”

“As expected, only Yongyong-ssi understands me.”

Chiyou quietly hid behind the Tamer Yongyong. It might have been an attempt to stimulate the protective instinct, although, from Leeha and Shin Nara’s perspective, it seemed like a futile effort. Nevertheless, Yongyong, who had already embraced the role of protector, just grinned widely.

“Nara, stop it.”

When Leeha stepped forward to take Nara’s side, the tense situation was defused. Even the spirited Shin Nara could now calm down a bit.

‘Supporting her like that is more noticeable. It seems that Shin Nara is becoming Leeha’s “eyes” beyond a simple liking. As for the items, it doesn’t matter much since I can steal a glance whenever the opportunity arises. Confirming their relationship was truly important.’

While Chiyou, with a feigned injured expression, was behind Yongyong, the act was an obvious performance.

If she decided to extract information in earnest, the most crucial thing was to discern who was on her side and whom to be cautious about. With this brief quarrel, Chiyou had once again organized her thoughts on who might support her.

“It’s unfortunate.”

As Ram Hwajung muttered quietly, the commotion surrounding Leeha’s return had come to an end. Alexander, who had been quietly listening to the conversation, ordered the ship to resume its maximum speed.

“Anyway, we just need to keep going straight now, right?”

“Yeah, as long as B-Team’s Hyein does well— the quest success probability should be at least 80%.”

1. Construction of the Mana Relay Tower in the Dawn Sea.

2. At least one combatant out of 40 arrives at the New Continent.


3. Construction of the Mana Relay Tower within the New Continent.

Reward for Goal 3: ?? (Reward variation based on the achieved goal quantity)

Condition for Failure: Failing to achieve more than 2 objectives.

Once Hyein resolved condition 1, the remaining tasks were conditions 2 and 3. While condition 3 might be challenging, the common belief among all expedition members was that condition 2 was almost guaranteed.

‘Considering we have the strongest combo of Alexander and Bailephus, resolving condition 1 should suffice to overlook failures.’

Of course, no user approached it with the thought of just meeting the minimum requirements for success. Now that Leeha had returned perfectly, there was no way the users wouldn’t aspire to succeed in all three quests.

“By the way, have we heard from Hyein?”

“I whispered to him about six hours ago, and things are progressing smoothly. About 6 hours left now.”

Kijung confirmed the time and nodded. With this piece of information, Leeha felt completely at ease. Since entering the waters near the Dragon Palace, except for a brief nap, Leeha hadn’t had a moment’s rest. The most urgent need was undoubtedly a good night’s sleep.

“Yeah, that’s right. I think I’ll go out and take a nap. Is that okay?”

“Yeah, who’s going to stop eong-ah from resting? You are the one who suffered the most among us. Get a good night’s sleep for a day or two.”

“Hey! Even if you say two days on Middle Earth, that’s only 10 hours. Shouldn’t you give us 24 hours of free time?”

“No, no. You only have two days on Middle Earth.”

Kijung gestured with an exaggerated attitude, and Leeha couldn’t help but chuckle at the playful exchange.

“Okay. Let’s cleanly start again in two days. Rotate the shifts as usual.”

With these words, Leeha prepared to log out, bidding farewell to the other users.

As Leeha prepared to log out, at the unmoving island in the center of the Sea of Dawn, called the ‘Buoy’, Hyein was standing, gazing into the distant sea. It had been 94 hours since Team B, led by Hyein, started their operation in the central area of the Dragon Palace. With only 6 hours left until Hyein’s time limit, the completion of the mana relay tower should have been normal. However, Hyein’s expression was dark.

“Sorry… But, at least this much, I must…”

Hyein raised his head and looked at the mana relay tower at the center of the Buoy. The completion rate of the mana relay tower was only about 75%. Even with Sage Hyein personally carrying materials and assisting the workers with skills, they couldn’t expedite the precise construction. He had to prepare himself for what was to come.

***


“Would you like to date me, Leeha?”

“What? Uh, what are you talking about?”

Leeha looked up awkwardly, taking a step back. Was it acceptance or rejection? It felt like his mind and body were playing separately. No, maybe it was a joke?

Leeha stared at her, but there was no change in Shin Nara’s expression.

“So, Leeha, does that mean you have no feelings for me? Did you discuss your feelings about me with others?”

“No, no, no. That’s not the case. It’s just too sudden-”

“What? You want to date that girl, right?”

“Wha! Ram Hwayeon?”

Whoosh-!

Flames burst from Ram Hwayeon’s fingertips. Leeha felt both bewildered and puzzled as he watched her casting without any change in Shin Nara’s expression.

“Why are you here-”

“Those who dare to defile the daughters of the Ram Long Group must face the consequences!”

“Bad oppa. 『Blizzard』.”

“What? Even Ram Hwajung-”

Whirrrrrr-!

The skill casting was fast. Leeha covered his face with both hands as a blizzard approached.

“Oooh! Aaah, aah…”

The cold wind gently touched Leeha’s face lying on the bed. His eyes opened with widened pupils, but even though he realized he had woken up from a dream, the tension didn’t easily dissipate.

“What chilly wind—damn it…”

He remembered now; he had briefly opened the window for ventilation and had fallen asleep like that. Despite feeling the chill, he recalled how tense he had been, and cold sweat was streaming down his cheek.


“Hey, what… Ram Hwayeon’s appearance in the dream did feel strange.”

Was it because of such a bizarre dream? Perhaps it indicated that he hadn’t properly rested, given his constant struggles within Middle Earth.

Experiencing such a dream was a first for Leeha, and he felt bewildered.

‘No, even though it was a Middle Earth-related dream, why like this…’

Leeha shook his head to clear his thoughts and looked at the clock. Only six hours had passed since he fell asleep, but sleep no longer came to him.

In the end, Leeha grumbled and moved his wheelchair, deciding to completely shake off the remaining drowsiness.

“Is ‘difficult tasks’ deeply ingrained in my subconscious in such an image? Certainly, the situation just now seemed more challenging than fighting Bluebeard.”

Checking the official homepage and community trends before logging into Middle Earth had become a daily routine for Leeha. However, this time, there was a number he found unfamiliar.

‘1 new email…? I should have blocked all spam. Where is this coming from?’

Attempting to block it again, Leeha found that the new email wasn’t spam. He was momentarily puzzled by the sender, Ram Hwayeon.

“Subject: E-ticket? What’s this? How does she know my email address… Was the appearance of Ram Hwayeon in the dream supposed to mean something like this?”

Leeha had a slight headache.

Leeha clicked on the email sent by Hwayeon, titled “e-ticket.”

『I heard Hwajung’s story. Are you busy these days? It seems the voyage to the new continent is long. According to Middle Earth standards, it might take less than 80 days, but considering real-time, I’ve set it for 30 days later. It’s a chartered flight, so I can adjust it for a day or two, but it’s better to match it. I’ve put in Master Kay as the guardian, but if you want to add someone else, contact me three days in advance. You can bring up to five companions, but there’s no need to make a fuss. See you at the Hong Kong International Airport.』

“What is she talking about?”

Even after reading it, the content didn’t quite make sense. Leeha started reading it again from the beginning. However, even without reading the entire content, the attached file alone was enough to trigger a sense of foreboding. Already, the specific date, departure: ICN / arrival: HKG, the term “chartered flight”, and the phrase “See you in Hong Kong” in the content…

“Is this a plane ticket?”

Relying on Ram Hwayeon’s skills, she wouldn’t need detailed passport information like for regular flights. Also, these individuals were guaranteed through a chartered plane, so there was no need for extensive information!

“How does she even know my birthdate and name? Is she insane, really?”

Leeha was dumbfounded at the absurdity of the situation.

“Using something like a Korean agency? If the Ram Long Group is trying to find out something, avoiding their attention might not be easy. Why go through all this trouble of setting a schedule for Hong Kong? Just telling us to come should have been enough… Hmm, strange.”

Leeha couldn’t comprehend the reason behind Ram Hwayeon arranging this Hong Kong trip.

‘She doesn’t seem like the usual Ram Hwayeon. More impulsive in her actions. And she’s silent. Why? What is she hiding? Well, at least my embarrassment is gone now.’

Leeha observed that Hwayeon’s behavior was different from her usual calm demeanor. The perplexing feeling persisted.

‘Yeah, something’s off. Definitely off.’

With a more composed mind, Leeha re-read the email, searching for any hints. There seemed to be nothing unusual, except for one word.

“Not a companion, not a friend, but ‘guardian’, and Master Kay is designated as the ‘guardian.’ Guardian? What is she protecting? Hm, it’s not like Ram Hwayeon is a fool to use the term ‘guardian’ for Master Kay just because he’s a tanker in reality.”

But there were no more clues. Was it a suggestion not to change the schedule? Or a reminder, because it’s a flight and schedules, couldn’t be altered easily due to airport schedules? The words were ambiguous. There were a few suspicious words, but with the information Leeha had, it was impossible to figure out the reason behind them.

‘Up to five companions… here it says “companions” again.’

After staring at the monitor for a while, Leeha finally shook his head. He now knew that analyzing Hwayeon’s actions in such detail had little meaning.

‘Whatever, I’ll go in and ask directly. Geez. But seriously, what’s going on?’

Using the Middle Earth login device, Leeha moved his wheelchair. Though it was still midnight in reality, once inside Middle Earth, the bright sun and the sea would be waiting.

‘Shouldn’t get into the habit of going in so early. They should all appreciate my efforts as much as I appreciate the trouble I went through in the waters of the Dragon Palace. Login!’

Despite having such thoughts, Leeha was looking forward to the users welcoming him. The memory of the friendly atmosphere between the users on both ships before logging out made him smile.

Shoo-!

However, upon logging in and greeting everyone, what Leeha faced was by no means a pleasant situation.

“Looks like you’ve been through a lot, coming a bit early—”

“Who doesn’t know that?!”

“I know, but are you going to keep saying that we should go?”

“Our food situation isn’t good! We haven’t even left the Dragon Palace’s waters yet! Even if we somehow manage to leave this place, who knows where we’ll end up next!”

The loud voices of the members of the expedition from the new continent caught Leeha’s attention.

“Yes, you said it well! It’s necessary because of such reasons! How can we go without Hyein-nim!”

It had been six hours since Leeha logged out, and in Middle Earth, it had already been a bit over a day. This meant they were on the 25th day since entering the waters of the Dragon Palace. Hyein had not returned, and the Mana Relay Tower wasn’t even completed yet. It had been 68 days since they departed from Kraven’s Harbor.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 436

				
 The situation temporarily calmed down due to Leeha’s connection issues. Perhaps because everyone had been expecting a smoother journey ahead, the sudden obstacles left the users somewhat frustrated.

“Kijung, what’s happening?”

“…Hyein-hyungnim hasn’t returned. We’ve already exceeded the limit.”

“Hyein-ssi? No way! Why?”

Leeha’s friend list only showed Hyein’s location as a buoy marker. Yet, on the 25th day of entering the Dragon Palace waters, if Hyein just went back one day’s distance, he could use teleportation in conjunction with Bailephus.

“Just turn back for a day and take him-”

“No, the mana relay tower isn’t finished yet.”

“What? Still?”

Hyein from Team B was separated from Team A, a fact unknown to Leeha, who was underwater at the time.

“There was an issue with the mass teleport. We couldn’t secure the distance and visibility… seems like we lost many worker NPCs.”

“Hehe, still, it’s incredible. The materials are intact, and to only lose 11 out of 30 workers in such rough seas. If it were someone else, they probably wouldn’t have even made it. Neither NPCs nor materials would have survived.”

A 1/3 loss of workforce doesn’t mean only a 1/3 increase in work time. From the start, exceeding the time limit was inevitable, and the accumulation of fatigue among NPCs was bound to worsen! Even with Hyein’s best efforts, the limits were clear. This realization hit them from the time limit point, and during the span of a Middle Earth day, the users were at odds with their opinions. Some argued to bring Hyein back, others focused on moving forward. Both sides had their logic, making it difficult to reach a conclusion.

Leeha listened slowly to their discussion.

‘Those who want to bring him back argue for the success of the remaining quests. But, isn’t the problem the skilled giant laborers that Hyein is with? We need them to safely erect the mana relay tower in the New Continent. Hyein’s skills are definitely helpful in navigation…’

The third condition for quest clearance. Erect at least one mana relay tower in the New Continent. For that condition, the laborers with Hyein are absolutely necessary. But the opposing side? They argue that being too greedy could lead to failing all quests.

‘Even counting the Giant Albatross, and the additional food supply we can fish during the journey, we barely have enough for 50 days. Naturally, these estimates can change, and if the supply isn’t smooth, we’ll have to save. So, how long is the expected duration of the voyage?’

Combining the mermaids’ information and Fernand’s, the confirmed distance.

From the Old Continent to the New Continent, the total voyage distance is about 120 days at the speed of the New Serpent and Blue Marlin. Now, on day 68, there are 52 days left. Of course, that’s if there are no issues. What if quests or monsters that steal more time appear on the way?

The already problematic food limit is uncertain. Furthermore, bringing back Hyein would require at least 3 additional days. Even if we wait at a point 24 days away, it will take a day to return, another day or two to wait for the completion of the mana relay tower, and then another day to return here.

They barely managed 50 days on rationed food, which they haven’t even secured yet, and now they were contemplating a schedule of at least 55 days.


‘I understand the position of those who want to first reach the New Continent.’

As soon as someone reaches the New Continent, we can avoid the quest failure condition. From a conservative perspective, it makes sense to leave Hyein behind.

“What do you think, Ha Leeha?”

Approached by Alexander while pondering, Leeha was deep in thought.

He seemed calmer than expected. Had he already come to a conclusion?

In any case, the conclusion was one of two options.

“Just a moment.”

Leeha opened his friend list, pondering for a moment.

Was it really just a choice between ‘safely leaving Hyein behind’ and ‘taking the risk to bring him along’?

Leeha: Hyein-ssi!

Hyein: Ah, Ha Leeha-ssi. I heard the good news about the quest. As expected, you are amazing-

Leeha: No, that’s not important right now. How far has the construction progressed?

Hyein: I’ll finish it even if it costs my life, so don’t worry.

Leeha: Hehe, I’m not worried. Just tell me how far you’ve come.

Hyein: I can definitely finish it within 48 hours.

Leeha: Two days, okay.

Hyein: What? Okay?

“Bailephus-nim!”

“Is there another way?”

“Please launch me in the direction of the buoy as far as possible. Use the maximum teleportation distance. Ah! And please renew the waterproof spell.”


Leeha, with Black Bass strapped firmly to his shoulder, was smiling.

Maybe he had gotten used to these kinds of situations after experiencing them a few times? Not many people could adapt to Leeha’s sudden actions.

“Hyung?”

“Leeha-ssi?”

“Hehe, again?”

Kijung, Shin Nara, and Biyemi still couldn’t understand Leeha’s thoughts.

“I didn’t think you came to the mermaid quest empty-handed.”

“Hmph, that rascal. He must have eaten something on his own again.”

Only Kidd and Luger, in some sense, the Three Musketeers, could jest about Leeha’s attitude. Maybe they understood each other the best.

“Can you do it?”

“I have to try, anyway. I’ve ‘heard something’ and want to give it a shot.”

“Hmm. Bailephus.”

Alexander nodded, approving Leeha’s suggestion.

“I’ll send you two days away.”

“That’s enough. Everyone, please continue in this direction. I’ll catch up with Hyein-ssi and the workers.”

Golden mana gathered around Bailephus’s body.

“Captain Drake isn’t here, but the ship is fast. How will Ha Leeha-ssi manage to-”

“Teleport.”

“-catch up… Who am I talking to?”

Fernand looked puzzled, staring in the direction Leeha had disappeared. The surrounding users couldn’t help but let out a burst of laughter. There was no rule that said they must choose between options A and B. There was always a way to create your own path. Leeha, who knew this well, first thought of a logical and fitting Plan C.


The audacity to offer grey when asked between black and white. That’s truly Leeha’s strength, but how many understand it? Even if they don’t understand, they can believe.

The members of the New Continent expedition, while thinking Leeha’s actions were absurd, were still hopeful.

They were hopeful that Leeha would once again succeed with his Plan C.

“Here! We need to tie it up from here!”

A giant, having climbed to the top of the mana relay tower, shouted while holding a steel plate. Although it was a job for two people, he was currently struggling alone.

“Come here, I just need one person to come up!”

“Lift it! One, two, heave!”

Despite his loud shouting, no one stepped forward. Rather, they couldn’t. Everyone was already busy with other tasks. The arms of the giant, who had been holding steel plates in front and behind the pillar, began to tremble.

“Here! We need to start blocking from here – oh, oh no! It’s collapsing!?”

Screeeeeech…!

Was this going to be a safety accident after all? The giant hurried to catch it, but the item was already falling below.

“Watch out-!”

“Woaaaah?!”

『Space Grab』!”

Thud!

The steel plate, falling over the giant worker’s head, stopped in mid-air. Hyein, holding his staff firmly planted on the ground, let out a sigh of relief.

“Haah… Are you okay?”

“Th-thank you, foreman.”

“Are you still calling me foreman? Sigh… You two over there! Put that down for a moment and help with this first.”

Hyein continued to give orders to the other giants, managing the accident. He had sped up the work to meet the time limit, but now he realized it might have been a mistake, albeit too late for regrets.

‘With so many safety accidents… Without enough workers, we should have gone safely and slowly.’ The more accidents and injuries there were, the longer the schedule got… Hyein had to endure a painful learning process to understand that ‘slow and steady wins the race’ in construction sites.

Leading the giant workers for several days, Hyein, called ‘foreman’ by them, oddly earned an achievement – perhaps his only consolation.

“Well, I’m not sure how much the strength and stamina buffs from Sage will help. Anyway… Let’s take a short break! As we originally resolved, we can’t turn back now. Let’s fulfill our duties with dignity here.”

“Understood, foreman-nim!”

“Foreman! Do we have any snacks?”

“For you giants, isn’t everything lying around here a snack? Knock down that tree and eat its fruits.”

When Hyein jokingly suggested this, the giants laughed heartily. It wasn’t just a simple joke. What Hyein and the NPC giants, prepared for death, shared was more a tight bond than mere banter.

‘Just six more hours until completion. Finally, I can rest.’

The giant NPC didn’t look for snacks for no reason. Originally, the food included in the materials was barely enough for three days. After the last meal on the third day, the plan was to work full force to complete the construction and immediately teleport back on the fourth day. After losing 11 workers, they stretched the food as far as it would go, but now, approaching day seven, there was nothing left. Hyein looked at the giants sprawled around. The construction would be completed, but what next?

‘I can’t turn back now. If I just log out here… I won’t have to see the dreadful scene. The sight of these giants starving to death. But is escaping the situation really the answer? No matter that they are NPCs, they’ve been colleagues in life and death for a week, and I even received the title of foreman from them…’ Realizing this, Hyein was startled by his own thoughts.

‘Me, thinking this way?’

Despite his gentle appearance and scholarly demeanor, sage Hyein was actually a cold and analytical type of player. Usually, he would consider the lives of NPCs insignificant, easily ignoring or even killing them when they were no longer useful.

‘… Have I changed?’

The thought of having such reflections in Middle Earth was unexpected.

However, Hyein faintly sensed why he had changed. There was someone who treated even the NPCs in the game as beings with their own personalities.

‘If I were to make an excuse for myself… Treating NPCs like people and behaving this way could be seen as a kind of ‘benefit.’ I’ve seen that person grow by doing so.’

But now, it wasn’t about ‘benefit.’ What benefit could there be in facing the fate of these pitiful NPCs who were destined to starve? Hyein tried to justify it awkwardly but wasn’t convinced himself. Eventually, he had to acknowledge the influence that person had on him.

‘It’s all because of Ha Leeha-ssi, how interesting. The shabby person I met near the capital, claiming to be Kay’s hyung, has now become one of the most special users in Middle Earth.’

(To be continued part…)
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 “Hey, Hyein!”

‘Why am I expecting something so illogical, shouting like that now? Irrationality is what I dislike the most-’

“Hye—in—-ssi!”

Hyein perked up his ears. There’s no way for earwax to build up in Middle Earth. Unless she misheard, is this an auditory hallucination? But the atmosphere around the nearby giants had already changed. The NPCs, who were lying down, were now all standing and looking in the same direction.

“No way…”

Something was swiftly approaching through the water currents beyond the buoy in the sea.

Hyein rubbed his eyes. There was no problem with Middle Earth. Nevertheless, the situation was so irrational and non-logical that she couldn’t help but act this way.

“Ha Leeha-ssi?”

As if riding a surfboard, Leeha smoothly glided over the sea.

However, he wasn’t approaching by skimming the water like a Pei Wu or an otter or diving like a dolphin.

“Wahaha! What’s this— Mana relay tower isn’t completed yet!? Anyway, it’s already late; let’s eat something! I brought a lot from the Dragon Palace—uh, uwaah-”

Chuwaai——-! Leeha almost lost balance but managed to regain it.

As he approached with a huge object protruding from the water, the giants staggered backward.

“Uwack!”

“A turtle!?”

“Why is the turtle so huge?”

The expression “losing words” wasn’t an exaggeration. Hyein shook his head. On the gigantic turtle shell, Leeha was carrying a considerable load. At least one thing was clear. How? Why? At this moment, all logic and reason had flown out of him. There was only one thing dominating his heart and mind. Just like shedding the pressure that had been tormenting him until a moment ago, sage Hyein raised both hands triumphantly.

“We’re alive———–!”

Then, he shouted with all his might. It was truly a roar of life. What Leeha believed in was Drake’s last words.

‘You don’t need to bring me, he said.’


It was a direct statement from Drake, the ‘captain’, who knew the speed of the ship better than anyone else. In other words, it meant that there was already something with the speed to catch up with the ship! Leeha caught that one word, so he asked Bailephus to throw him into the sea of the Dragon Palace. There, he immediately transformed into a mermaid and, with the help of the ‘Tortuga’ from Drake, came on his way.

‘I’m fortunate that it’s still here. Huh, looking at the situation, it seems like it’s going to be a long journey.’

If there was any worry, it would be the possibility that Drake had left the Dragon Palace and moved somewhere. However, he stayed until Leeha went to the Dragon Palace.

Looking at Drake’s expression, who was smiling slightly while watching Leeha, Leeha thought that he would continue to stay in the Dragon Palace.

‘Even though he acted like he was leaving immediately, captain Drake was someone who enjoyed playing tricks subtly.’

Perhaps because of the increased familiarity or the shared experience of life and death, dealing with Drake had become quite comfortable for Leeha, and Drake, in turn, understood Leeha’s urgency and provided him with a ‘suitable’ means of transportation.

‘In the worst case, I was thinking of mobilizing about a hundred mermaids to move the giants. Fortunately.’

If it weren’t for Drake’s help, Leeha himself could transform into a mermaid and move. But what about the giants?

They needed to be there for the construction of the mana relay tower. Hearing that, naturally, they couldn’t leave them on the island.

Therefore, what was needed was a giant means of transportation. When Drake explained it, Leeha didn’t even know about it until he saw Drake’s satisfied expression.

It turned out that, like how mermaids controlled creatures like Krakens, there was a type of monster that could be controlled by the power of mermaids—the giant sea turtle, tortuga.

‘The ride may be a bit bumpy, but it’s fast and spacious. It’s just perfect!’

“Hehe, Ha Leeha-ssi! Can I be of help too?!”

“Yes, thank you, anderson-ssi.”

“Thank you! Anderson, the youngest of the Sea God’s Guard! I will safely escort Ha Leeha-nim to the humans’ ship according to my assigned mission!”

Near Tortuga’s neck, anderson saluted towards Leeha. It was also an opportunity for Leeha to greet Anderson and Sea Breaim, as he hadn’t had the chance last time. In the meantime, anderson had joined the Sea God’s Guard, and now he was in charge of piloting Tortuga.

The giant turtle swam gracefully toward the buoy. Leeha slid down its neck like a slide, finally landing on the buoy from its shell.

“Now, Hyein-ssi! Let’s finish up quickly and head back! I brought a lot of supplies for the mermaids to recover their stamina since I thought you might be running out of food!”

“Wooohooo, food! It’s food!”

“Supervisor! Let’s eat! Is it okay?”


Giant NPC greeted Leeha with drool dripping down. Technically, what Leeha was carrying were ingredients, but the giants were excited nonetheless. Hyein smiled as she watched their enthusiasm.

“Sure! Enjoy your meal! After you finish eating, you all have to help with the construction!”

“Huh? Help? And what’s with the foreman act? Hyein-ssi, it feels like the atmosphere has changed a lot while I was away.”

Leeha felt a bit awkward as Hyein emitted an unexpectedly cheerful atmosphere. While his appearance hadn’t changed because of the Middle Earth, his skin seemed to have tanned as if he had been under the sun for a long time.

“Hahaha! Of course! Don’t you know that construction sites are the best places to help a man grow? Haven’t you tried doing manual labor?”

“What kind of supervisor-like words are those? Besides, I’ve done enough hard work to the point where my teeth chatter! Anderson, come up here and help me!”

“Leave it to me!”

Leeha even made Anderson join in as a helper, using the mermaids’ ingredients freely.

Dishes like giant clam abalone roast and lobster shield-roast, not visible unless in the deep sea, were top-grade items that fully restored stamina with just one bite.

‘And Blaugrunn, he should have followed us at times like this. He never shows up when it’s important.’

Leeha, avoiding the giants devouring the food as if closing their eyes to the storm, tried to sneak a few pieces into her bag.

Suddenly, if it wasn’t for the strength that grabbed his hand, it could have been a problem. Ironically, it was Jellypong who grabbed his arm. Although it’s possible to create armor for desired areas, what Leeha set up was in the form of a vest. In other words, the third arm sticking out from her chest seemed to be holding his right arm.

Whether to call it an arm was questionable because the eyes, nose, and mouth were attached to the arm part.

“Whoa! Jellypong? Does this thing also eat food?”

“Haha, no. Jellypong doesn’t eat food. It just wants to play.”

Anderson greeted Jellypong with a friendly smile, but Leeha was bewildered.

“What kind of item plays around… Ssh, ssh! Just go back to the vest form for now!”

『Squelch…』

Smoothly, Jellypong turned back into armor with an expression that seemed to hang somewhere. Meanwhile, the giants had already finished their meal. Hyein also wiped his mouth roughly and surveyed the surroundings.

“Now, if you’ve all eaten, let’s get to work! Leeha-ssi, will you help too?”


“Really? Do I really need to help? Just cooking was enough-”

“Hey, hey, that won’t do! Here, take this! Since we only have some finishing materials left, it’s light, so carrying this should be enough!”

Hyein handed Leeha a seemingly heavy metal rod.

Even to hold it, the item applied quite a bit of force to Leeha’s arm muscles. And, relatively speaking, it was the ‘smallest’ among what remained.

“But it’s heavy. It’s at least five times heavier than Black Bass.”

Even among NPCs, giants are exceptionally massive, and the predominant materials are heavy. It’s quite a burden for Leeha, especially with not much strength in her physique. How did Sage manage to lift it?

“Is it bearable?”

“Well, I can handle it, but… People need to use their heads, right?”

“Huh?”

Hyein showed a puzzled expression towards Leeha’s smiling face and cautiously opened her mouth.

“Jellypong! Look here, lift as much as you can!”

Swooosh!

With Leeha’s shout, something huge popped out from Jellypong’s chest. Dozens of arms extended from the small slime, and the scene of numerous arms extending from a small slime looked somewhat grotesque.

“What is that? What came out of the slime’s chest!”

“Is it a curse from the North?”

“I’m from the North, and what on earth! Where is there a vague curse like that in the world?”

“Then what on earth is that? It can’t be a spirit.”

The giant NPCs were astonished and murmured. The unfamiliar form and its power were enough to surprise them.

Even lifting one of the items was burdensome for Leeha, but Jellypong easily held more than fifteen, waiting for Leeha’s command.

“At least I’ve figured out one more way to use Jellypong.”

『Legendary Meta-Water Elemental: ‘Jellypong’ (Strength Type)』

Attack Power: User’s Strength + (Agility * 50%) + (Intelligence * 30%)

Type: Melee

Effect: When accompanying the user within range, the user’s constitution +30%

Requirements: Achievement 『Resurrected Origin of the Sea』

Description: A water elemental containing the essence of the sea god. Although it controls water elementals, Jellypong itself is not a water elemental but rather carries the essence of the sea god born from the abode of the divine. Jellypong will fulfill the user’s desires, no matter what they may be.

While Jellypong detailed window was treated like an item, it was distinctly different from regular items.

“The transformation options available in the attack type, allowing selection among strength/agility/intelligence types, are unparalleled, especially when compared to regular items.”

‘Amazing. When in strength type, it generates a buff that increases my health. 30% is not a small amount. Not to mention Jellypong’s own attack power. Character window.’

For strength type, it converts the user’s strength into attack power, using a portion of agility and intelligence stats as a basis. Similarly, agility type uses agility as a basis, and intelligence type utilizes intelligence for other stats.

For low-level users, it might be a mana drain, but for HaIha, it’s truly a ‘gift from God.’

Name: Ha Leeha/ Race: Human / Class: Musketeer / Level: 183 (67%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 111

HP: 7,839 (5,487)

MP: 1,385

Stats: Strength 334 (+249)

Agility 2,824 (+960)

Intelligence 160 (+109)

Health 215 (+122)

Mind 52 (+42)

Remaining Stat Points: 78

‘Oh, right, stats!’

Having forgotten about achievements like the Resurrected Origin of the Sea, Under the Sea, and leveling up stats, Ha Leeha hastily distributed the stat points.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha invested all 78 stat points in agility, feeling that there was no need for other stats in his growth.

‘In this case, Jellypong’s attack power would be 334 + (2,902 * 50%) + (160 * 30%). A whopping 1,833.’

This is the stat for when it’s in strength type. If transformed into agility type, where agility is the basis, and then brought into battle, the stats would be formidable. Considering that the tank-oriented legendary one-handed sword Leeha gave to Kijung had an attack power of 2,130 to 2,280, it’s evident that Jellypong’s attack power is impressive.

However, the actual combat effectiveness, the ability to use skills, and the attack speed were still unknown to Leeha. Therefore, a direct comparison of Jellypong’s strength against Kijung was impossible. But at least, drake had a reason to not underestimate Jellypong.

『Mongmongmong……!』

“Hehe, that’s right. Good child. Good, pretty.”

Leeha gently stroked the part that he presumed to be Jellypong’s head.

‘Looks like you shouldn’t judge based on appearances. It turns out this little one is so cute.’

Jellypong’s form was not consistent. Therefore, Leeha decided to treat the part with eyes, nose, and mouth – even though their positions changed each time – as the head.

『Myomungmyomung-!』

The water spirit made a laughter-like sound, and Leeha responded with a smile, then turned to the giants, fists clenched.

“What are you doing? Why can’t you carry it quickly? Just moving this and assembling it should finish the job, right?”

No giant remained passive in the face of Leeha’s taunting words. Their inherently combative nature rekindled the flames of competition.

Watching them raise their arms, Leeha chuckled, and Anderson cheered.

“Cheer up! We’ll go around with Tortuga and check the surroundings!”

With a terrifying roar, the giant turtle detached from the buoy near the coast. Impressed, Hyein asked Leeha,

“How fast is that?”

“Well, according to Captain Drake, it should be about twice the speed of our ship. When I rode it, it felt like that.”

“Indeed…”

“But since it’s not planning to go outside the Dragon Palace’s territory – we have to catch up before our ship goes out there. Let me think… If we finish the work within the next 6 hours, it will be almost midnight. It’s the 28th day since entering the Dragon Palace’s territory, and it becomes the day of the entire schedule… We are currently departing from day 20, moving at twice the speed, and to meet them on day 28… How many days do we have?”


Leeha started counting with his fingers and toes, mumbling. As he struggled, Hyein passed by and casually said,

“You seem subtly weak in math. After we depart, in 8 days -”

“We’ll meet in 8 days.”

“-Approach- Huh? Are you following my words?”

And then, Leeha promptly followed suit. Seeing Hyein’s bewildered expression, Leeha vigorously shook his head in denial.

“N-No, what are you saying! I calculated it!”

“Yes, yes. Okay, please move quickly.”

“But, Hyein-ssi, really, it seems like something in your personality has changed?”

Even with a laugh, Leeha could clearly feel it. Middle Earth could be a game that changed people.

With hustle and bustle, the work at the central 『Buoy』 of the Dragon Palace’s territory was rapidly coming to an end. It was only about four hours later that the crystalline structure, shining with violet light, was raised on the highest peak of the motionless giant island.

Zwoooooosh— The movement of the New Serpent’s Hook was smooth. Hook, who had managed the NPC helmsman since Drake’s departure, nodded with a satisfied expression.

“It’s a shame there’s no storm. We could’ve raised our skill proficiency a lot!”

“If you’re disappointed, shall I make one for you again?”

“Haha! A jest, a joke. By the way, did you say something, master Kay? How about meeting briefly in the joint management waters of Fibiel and Kraven? Kraven’s forces can come over too.”

“Huh? Why?”

“Why, you ask! It’s to borrow the power of that coat, of course.”

Hook grinned, pointing at Kay. Kay shrugged.

“Kick, it’s not mine anyway. You know that well, hook.”

On the way to the Dragon Palace, Leeha once again entrusted Kay with the coat.

In case there’s a chance of a natural storm during the voyage, and also with the idea of gaining something extra(?) when going to the Dragon Palace! Taking advantage of this opportunity, hook stealthily approached Kay.


“So! How about coming with Leeha-nim once! Next time when we come together, we can do Captain Drake’s Quest together, and—”

“Hook, why do you call him ‘nim’ when talking to Leeha-ssi, but for our Master Kay, you just address him casually?”

“Ghost!”

Kijung’s ears twitched as Hook whispered into them, causing him to startle and step back. He seemed flustered, like a child caught doing something wrong.

“What’s going on?”

“Oh, nothing.”

“Heh, it’s obvious. He was trying to drag Master Kay into doing something strange, right?”

“Something strange? What… Anyway, master Kay-nim, please think about it!”

As Bobae spoke with a teasing tone, hook mumbled something incoherent and retreated back to the helm.

It was evident during this voyage that Hook’s attitude was closer to that of a pirate, not just because of his profession but also because of his deeply ingrained survival of the fittest mentality. He was someone who is weak to the strong and strong to the weak. Knowing this made Kijung feel bitter.

“Haha, how underestimated our Guild Master is.”

“Yeah, he should have witnessed the struggle we endured while getting things from the New Serpent.”

The fact that Hook was treating Kijung as if he were beneath him was apparent. Kijung felt even more dejected with Biyemi’s cynical remark.

“Kijung-ssi is way better than Leeha-ssi. Don’t you think so, Biyemi-ssi?”

“Kit. No comment”, Bobae said, patting Kijung’s back, trying to boost his spirits. However, the Lizardia, who was close to Kijung, the atmosphere wasn’t as easygoing.

“Biyemi-ssi? What comment?”

“Oh, yes comment. Our Guild Master is naturally better. Solid back posture! Kit, kit. So, could you please lower that bow?”

With Leeha gone for over a week, the journey had been peaceful and leisurely. The weather in the Dragon Palace’s territory was sunny, no more fishmen appeared, and the sea monsters couldn’t even approach the ships.

“Mermaids are blocking the Kraken at a depth of 70m underwater.”

“Grateful beings, aren’t they? Oh, can we call them beings? Grateful fish?”


Jin Gonggong smiled wryly as he heard the martial artist’s absurd question.

“Actually, it’s all thanks to Ha Leeha-nim. Even while going to rescue Hyein, he managed to set this up.”

The mermaids restraining the sea creatures underwater were all under Leeha’s influence. With his familiarity with the mermaids at 100%, the mermaids would protect the two ships until they left the area.

“I could have handled them.”

Only Ram Hwajung seemed bitter, glancing at the sea once and then looking at the spot where Ha Leeha disappeared.

Since leaving Kraven’s territory, when did they start feeling this relaxed? Kidd lay down, covering his face with his hat.

“Is he dead?”

Tap, tap. Luger nudged Kidd’s leg with his foot.

“Don’t talk to me while I’m sweetly dozing off.”

“I know it’s impossible to recover stamina using sleep on Middle Earth. Get up, let’s talk.”

Regardless of what Kidd replied, was there something Luger wanted to say? Luger sat down next to the lying Kidd.

Whether Kidd had something he wanted to do floating in his mind or not, Luger lightly kicked Kidd’s leg.

“Don’t pretend to be asleep; we’re talking.”

Kidd raised his hat slightly, glanced at Luger, and then opened his mouth first. As Chiyou once mentioned, the “head” of the Three Musketeers was undoubtedly Kidd.

“It’s not something to worry about right now. We can think about it after leaving Kraven’s territory. At this moment, just let it be.”

Whether Kidd wanted to talk or not, Luger sat down next to the lying Kidd.

Luger nodded while stroking his cobalt-blue python, then nodded. Kidd, who had been lying down, glanced at Luger and lifted his hat slightly.

“You’ve changed too, Luger.”

“Well, what’s changed?”

“Would you have said such things to me before? Are you now realizing the importance of ‘cooperation’?”

“Cooperate with you? Me?”

“It’s too late to deny it now. Wouldn’t it have been better if you had come out more cooperatively earlier?”

“Admitting, cooperating? Bullshit! Nonsense!”

When Luger started to protest, Kidd chuckled. His hat on his face twitched.

After a while of bantering, Luger finally raised his cobalt-blue python and stood up.

“If you’re going to talk nonsense, get up! I’m bored, how about a round of PvP—”

Suddenly, a strange object appeared behind them.

Ding-ding-ding-ding! Just as Luger was about to engage with Kidd again, a scream and a bell rang out from the mast of the Cheongsae-chi Ho.

“Strange object?”

“At the rear? What now?”

Expedition members swiftly prepared for battle. Those who had just shown an indifferent attitude moved at a speed that was unimaginable just moments ago. Amidst this, only a few remained relaxed.

“Baeliphus.”

“Yeah, he’s here.”

The Hwangryong and Alexander, who had already sensed Hyein’s spatial mana.

“Oh my… he’s bringing all the giant NPC giants too! Ha Leeha has really—”

Rubini, observing through the 3D map, saw the giant turtle Tortuga and the users and NPCs on top of it. She was astonished.

‘What is that? What kind of pet is that—’

Chiyou, who also checked the situation through her ‘dance’, turned her head quickly to confirm Torutuga’s identity. However, tortuga just lowered its head without revealing anything.

“I’ve never seen anything like that.”

“Really. I’ve never seen such a creature…”

“To consider it a summon, Ha Leeha-nim isn’t that type of job, right?”

Rubini, Jin Gonggong, and even Elmi were surprised as they looked at the giant turtle. Whether through the 3D map or through her ‘dance’, Chiyou could feel the amazement of the users.

(To be continued…)
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 “We’re here! Hyein and all the crew are safe!”

Leeha happily shouted.

However, sometimes admiration that goes beyond comprehension can be detrimental. Excessive admiration beyond the scope of understanding only adds confusion.

As Kidd said to Luger, there wouldn’t be any events until they left the waters of the Dragon Palace.

Around this time, the users’ attention began to shift back to their ‘personal growth’ and ‘competition’, as Kidd mentioned. It might have been a natural progression.

Looking at Leeha on Tortuga’s shell, some users’ eyes sparkled.

“Did you get a new vest? I didn’t see it last time.”

“Haah… I envy the Dragon Palace. Can’t you take me there just once?”

“By the way, what happened to that turtle? If mermaids can control something like that, it must be a pet concept. Are there any other secrets?”

“Can we do a raid? I’ll give you incredible items. What about the mermaids?”

“Wait a moment! Please speak one at a time. Even if you all crowd in like this, I can’t answer everything!”

Leeha shook his head and moved to another place. However, like a 7-year-old child who discovered a new toy, the users’ fascination didn’t easily fade.

Those clinging to Leeha were the ones who survived in Middle Earth, where each stat point and new piece of information determined strength and weakness.

Even subtly tormenting Leeha to hear just one more word or one more syllable was not a problem for them.

“Poor Leeha, how many times has this happened? Ram Hwajung immediately clings to you as soon as she logs out.”

“Haha, that’s right. It’s so blatant that it’s pitiful. It’s not easy either.”

“I’ve tried organizing traffic one or two times. I feel like telling Leeha to stay logged out without caring about the rotation.”

Kijung, Biyemi, and Bobae sighed as they witnessed the scene.

After safely bringing Hyein and the Giant NPCs two days ago, and on the 40th day since entering the Dragon Palace’s waters, today marks the day they finally leave the Dragon Palace’s waters.

Originally, the expedition members were gathered around Leeha from the start, but under the harsh threat of ‘If you torment my hyung, I’ll sink the ship’, everyone kept their distance.


However, now that they are caught in Ram Hwajung’s logout rotation, they are rushing toward Leeha like a school of fish in the water.

Even with Fernand’s announcement urging everyone to remain calm, the users couldn’t resist the temptation to bother Leeha.

“But… I understand that reaction. I would do the same. I just want to ask about the location of that Tortuga. It’s a colossal animal larger than most adult dragons; I can’t even imagine how much familiarity experience points it would give.”

“Their abilities are also a concern. If they can’t respond to emergencies, it’s one thing, but those who can prepare for battle in just a few seconds… We can’t handle them like kids and cause trouble in various ways.”

Jin Gonggong and Hyein sympathized, but it was a situation where they had no choice but to watch.

Even users from the Blue Marlin came over in significant numbers, just to witness the habit of bothering Leeha.

“But… It’s unfortunate that I can’t have a conversation with Leeha-ssi here. Sigh, poor thing.”

“You can’t come over?”

Bobae sighed as he looked at the deck of the Blue Marlin, a bit distant. Kijung, too, could be seen lingering on the deck of the Blue Marlin.

“It seems like he wants to come over… Even I have my stubbornness. He insists that Fibiel’s supervisor should be on the Fibiel ship. He’s being stubborn for a trivial reason, saying he doesn’t want to come for some insignificant reason.”

“Haha, maybe Ha Leeha is waiting for you to come over to the Blue Marlin. Since he kept dashing ahead all the time.”

“Oh my? Biyemi, do you secretly know well?”

“Huh? I’m a lizard here but don’t forget that I’m not one outside. Hehe.”

Bobae looked at Biyemi with a surprised expression, and Biyemi revealed a smile. If Shin Nara on the Blue Marlin had heard their conversation, she might have felt a bit unjust.

The reason she didn’t come to the New Serpent was not simply because of pride or because she was Fibiel’s inspector. She didn’t come because she didn’t want to be a bother.

‘Aside from Alexander, others are causing a ruckus just to get a drop of information from Leeha-ssi… isn’t he curious about the information Leeha leaks?’ He remained in the Blue Marlin, monitoring other users still present.

Staying close to Leeha’s location was also part of Leeha’s request, thinking that responding to the request would help capture his heart, given that he was wandering around Leeha’s area.

‘Well, it’s hard to know what Petyr is thinking… Indeed, if there’s a problem, it isn’t only Chiyou that Leeha mentioned.’

Especially the dynamics between Chiyou and Piddr, highlighted by Leeha, were a major mission that she paid attention to throughout her login. The fact that these two were not approaching Leeha and were staying on the Blue Marlin was the reason she, too, remained inactive.

However, as Shin Nara, she couldn’t know. The job of a dancer was not just about reading the flow of air and predicting a few seconds ahead like an oracle; it had more to it.


She refrained from approaching Leeha directly because she could fully grasp the current situation. In the past, it might have been impossible, but now she had her “collaborator.”

『Ah, please, stop! If I ask you about levels or stats, will you answer straightforwardly? No, right! Please stop asking! Let’s play the game with manners and not make each other frustrated.』

『Well, even so, monopolizing everything alone is too much! We’re all part of the same expedition to the New Continent. If we all get stronger together, we can share the burden in the future. It’s a good thing, isn’t it?』

『That’s right, we’re all in the same New Continent Expedition. If we all get stronger together, it’s good for sharing the hardships in the future, right?』

‘Well, that’s right. That’s right. Keep pushing. Find out everything about what happened in the Dragon’s Palace, what kind of things occurred.’ So far, she had indirectly investigated by subtly probing the surroundings. However, now?

Chiyou’s skill was somehow embedded in the Tamer Yongyong near Leeha. Without necessarily going to Leeha, she could fully understand what each user was saying.

‘It’s not necessary to confront Shin Nara again; it’s not necessary to draw attention again. It’s fortunate to have a lovely fool.’ It was a kind of eavesdropping device, and its use required the user’s consent. The fact that it was working meant that Yongyong had agreed to transmit all sounds around him to Chiyou.

Chiyou knew how to effectively utilize a man with feelings for her. Now, the Tamer Yongyong was no different from being Chiyou’s slave.

『St-stop bothering us! Haven’t you been too much to Leeha these days? For my sake—no, for our sake, you’ve been suffering without even resting alone. Just because of a trivial incident, you shouldn’t push Leeha so much!』

Suddenly, in Chiyou’s mind, a new voice echoed in a way she couldn’t have imagined.

‘Hmm? This voice is…’

『When did we push him like that? That’s too much.』

『That’s right. Why are you coming at us like this, Rubini? You’ve been chasing after Ha Leeha-nim just like us Rubini.』

‘Rubini?’ Chiyou’s eyebrows twitched. Was Rubini taking Leeha’s side at this point?

‘Not just biting and hanging on to gain something, but rather a strategy to get close first and then tear him apart in earnest? Well, that wouldn’t be bad.’

Interpreting everything in her own way, Chiyou waited for Rubini’s response, feeling the liveliness in the atmosphere. Rubini’s response was beyond Chiyou’s imagination.

『T-That is… I just… I just wanted to let Leeha rest… that’s all.』

‘… What? What is this clumsy fox-like behavior? No, wait, wait. Is this…?’

This was precisely the point where Chiyou’s ‘environment’ differed from before. If Yongyong only conveyed ‘something happened’ to her, she would never have been able to think like this.

If Rubini was just trying to foxily steal information from Leeha as Chiyou initially thought, her nature would confirm that. However, now? The subtle difference in Rubini’s voice and the nuance within injected new thoughts into Chiyou’s mind.


The first sacrificial lamb designated in the Mermaid Quest, the Oracle Rubini. Chiyou reconsidered her past experiences and actions, slowly aligning them with her current statement.

‘Right. She did subtly talk like that back then too, didn’t she? Hmph… this will be interesting. At least I can drop one eye. Well, if you’re going to be interesting, it’s worth keeping an eye on you.’

Chiyou began to tidy her clothes, trying to grasp the situation a bit more. The confusion in Rubini’s words affected not only Chiyou but also the users around Leeha.

“What are you talking about? It’s like you’re saying we’re bothering Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Yeah, when we have this much free time, isn’t it Middle Earth to talk about these things and exchange information? Rubini, you’re overreacting.”

“That’s right. We naturally share our information with Hailea. Hailea, are you a musketeer? Since you’re a ranged dealer, you must need agility achievements. That’s why I can tell you.”

“Oh! Don’t cut in line sneakily like that.”

As one or two users were heading towards Rubini, their arrows were now directed back towards Leeha. Blocking Leeha, Rubini stood in front of the users, unable to say anything more in the face of their aggressive demeanor.

Watching this scene, Leeha couldn’t tolerate it any longer.

Baaaaaang———–! Black Bass’s shot soared into the sky, startling even the other users on the Blue Hermit.

“Oh, really! If you keep doing this, I’ll just block you altogether. How can you treat people like this? Are you descendants of heroes or those who have achieved excellent results in national tournaments?”

That was precisely the reason. If it were an ordinary user, they might have just expressed admiration and moved on. However, being descendants of heroes or achieving outstanding results in national tournaments meant they were users who understood the value of information, hence their strong attachment to it.

Although users harbored such thoughts individually, they didn’t voice them aloud while watching Leeha genuinely getting upset.

Users took small steps back, subtly opening up a path as Leeha continued to advance. As Leeha moved forward, users who had blocked her path began to retreat discreetly.

Trying to escape the encircling users, Leeha couldn’t help but feel a sense of helplessness as he watched a user who had shown courage to stand in her way slip away.

“Rubini, let’s go.”

“Oh… yes.”

Nodding slightly, rubinie followed Leeha quickly. Leeha confidently led her to where Kijung and Bobae were.

(To be continued…)
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 “He could have at least told us one thing before leaving.”

“We might have been a bit too much. Still, it’s Leeha-nim, so he won’t be as angry.”

“We ended up stirring the mood for no reason. Ugh… like missing a big catch, huh?”

Users had tasted a bit of remorse, but no one completely gave up on Leeha. Conversations among users, laughing and chatting, continued. Some even speculated about Rubini and Leeha’s relationship.

“By the way, rubinie, why did she step up like that?”

“Is she his lover?”

“Hahaha! Lover? Come on, let’s not talk about these things among ourselves. Anyway, we’re all part of the New Continent Expedition, right?”

Laughter and chatter filled the air as users continued to interact. Chiyou, who had been pretending to gaze at the distant sea, finally began to move.

“Hey, Shin Nara-ssi?”

“Yes?”

Chiyou greeted her with a bright smile. 

‘I’m definitely not your enemy.’ With that innocent smile alone, any naive man could be disarmed.

“What’s going on?”

Shin Nara was no fool. She wasn’t about to open up to Chiyou, who suddenly approached as if they were old friends. Nevertheless, Chiyou started chatting away with a gentle smile, not giving Nara the chance to resist.

“Must there always be something significant for us to talk? I just wanted to express my gratitude for your hard work on the Blue Marlin, day and night.”

“Oh no, I just did what I had to do. There’s no need for thanks.”

“You’re so stiff. If you’re this rigid, won’t all the men run away? No, wait, maybe they already have…?”

Sometimes like a tavern madam and other times like a neighborhood gossip.

Chiyou’s ability to subtly change the atmosphere to her liking while talking was truly remarkable. With a casual comment, she managed to get a slight reaction from the usually composed Shin Nara.

“What are you trying to say?”


“Oh, my, get a hold of yourself. It’s nothing. Hoho! I’m sorry for the misunderstanding last time. I thought Leeha-ssi and Shin Nara-ssi were in a romantic relationship. It wasn’t true, though. I must have misunderstood, and it made things awkward between you two. Right?”

“I’m sorry, but I really don’t understand what you’re talking about.”

Maintain an objective attitude. Any distraction could open up sincerity, and that must be avoided.

Chiyou’s seemingly casual remarks were, in essence, an ‘attack’ to open up the closed heart of Shin Nara.

She needed to ignore it. Just dismiss it, say it doesn’t matter, and end the conversation.

“Lovers… Certainly, we’re not lovers yet, but… Chiyou is behaving as if I and Leeha-ssi were once lovers and separated.”

However, Chiyou was bringing up words that touched Shin Nara in an odd direction. She was hinting at something strange. That point hit Shin Nara. Chiyou quickly scanned Nara’s expression and threw a final blow.

“Oh my. You two haven’t broken up or anything, right? With Rubini-ssii—”

“Rubini-ssi?”

When Shin Nara raised her eyebrows, Chiyou widened her eyes and clapped her hands together in surprise.

“Oops! Still, no breakups or anything? With Rubini-ssi—”

“Rubini-ssi?”

Shin Nara’s interruption was perfectly timed. Chiyou, expecting a reaction to the name, even feigned surprise and lightly tapped her own mouth as if she had made a mistake.

“O-Oh, no?! You really didn’t know anything? That’s a surprise! My, my, what a small world. I’m sorry; pretend you didn’t hear anything.”

“I would appreciate it if you didn’t mention the personal lives of other users, not just me.”

“Right. That’s right. It’s better not to. I just… noticed that Leeha-ssi and Rubini-ssi seemed close, holding hands and all… So, I assumed. I’m sorry, Shin Nara-ssi.”

Chiyou bowed with a flustered expression. Shin Nara sighed, observing her reactions.

Each gesture, each word—Shin Nara knew they were mere provocations, but she also knew how absurd and baseless they were.

‘If it were Ram Hwayeon or Ram Hwajung, maybe, but to insinuate something about Rubini whom Leeha-ssi met for the first time on this expedition…’

Then she turned her attention back to New Serpent.


Leeha and Rubini were walking together towards Mast, passing by Kijung and Bobae. They weren’t holding hands.

“Um, excuse me, Shin Nara-ssi?”

“Yes?”

“Why bother avoiding people all the way here?”

“Oh, come on. Let’s stay here. Rubini-nim, please have a seat.”

“Thank you… very much, Leeha-nim.”

“No need to thank me; I’m the one who should be grateful. Ah, when I first came back, everyone was keeping it low-key with Hyein’s issue and all. But now that we’ve got some breathing room, everyone’s going crazy.”

Leeha sighed, glancing around at the scattered users. The idea of fighting with sea monsters or dealing with fishmen seemed more comfortable than handling the current situation.

“Kiskis, maybe it was because of Ram Hwajung’s threat, but anyway, you shouldn’t be flaunting your talents like that. All the users here are starving for information, just like hungry sharks. It’s all because Leeha-ssi is too exceptional.”

“That’s right. It’s a bit overwhelming for Leeha-nim to be so unique.”

“Don’t say that, Biyemi-ssi, and Jin Gonggong, too. Don’t speak like that from the perspective of the one being targeted… Leeha-nim is suffering.”

As Leeha watched Rubini’s distressed expression, along with the laughter of the surrounding users, he couldn’t help but smile. Having flaws and imperfections made them more human and relatable, providing a sense of reassurance to their fellow players.

“Leeha-ssi, I want to know something.”

Surprisingly, someone approached Leeha while watching the scene. Hyein made a gesture as if adjusting glasses and sat down next to Leeha.

“Yes? What do you want to learn all of a sudden, Hyein-ssi?”

“Let’s analyze this coolly. Right now, Leeha-ssi has information that no one else knows. Correct?”

“Well… that’s true.”

“And that information holds significant value, and there are many who desire it. Right?”

“That’s also… true.”

Smirks and giggles erupted from Biyemi and Bobae as they already understood what Hyein was getting at. Hyein, like a teacher explaining to a student, patiently led Leeha to understand.


“When supply is one, and demand is many… in that situation, who could be in the position of a supplier?”

“… The supplier? So, you mean—”

Thunk! Hyein tapped Leeha’s head, and with a grin, continued.

“Leeha-ssi, you are the supplier. Haven’t you realized that with the information you have, you can not only avoid them but also have enough power to control them?”

As Hyein’s words sunk in, Leeha and Kijung exchanged surprised glances, realizing the implications of what was being said.

“Wow… What? Is that true?”

“Yeah, exactly. Why are you always being manipulated like this?”

The scene was so surprising that it caught the attention of the surrounding users.

“Kiskiskis, there’s a limit to being kind. At this point, he’s practically a fool.”

“Oh, Kijung-ssi! That’s what I meant when I asked you to give me advice earlier. What kind of advice can I give in this situation? You… didn’t understand the situation?”

“I might need to reconsider joining the Byulcho Guild. Haha… Biyemi, Bobae, and Jin Gonggong seemed disappointed.”

It’s not that they didn’t want to abuse their power, but they didn’t even have the awareness that they had to abuse their power.

“As expected of Leeha-ssi.”

“What? What do you mean?”

“Oh, well. It means you didn’t understand the situation?”

“Guild membership might need to be reconsidered. Haha… Biyemi, Bobae, and Jin Gonggong found it amusing.”

The conversation continued, and Rubini, who had been listening, expressed deep emotions, then bowed her head deeply. She couldn’t even make eye contact with Leeha properly.

At that moment, a whisper came to Bobae.

Nara: Bobae.

Bobae: Oh, Nara! Since we have nothing else to do, let’s chat!

Nara: No, it’s okay. Is Leeha there now?

Bobae: Yes, we’re together.

Nara: Who else is there?

Bobae: Again? Hmm…

Bobae informed Nara of the people present, including Kijung, Hyein, Biyemi, Jin Gonggong, and…

Bobae: Rubini-nim is also here.

Nara: … Rubyne-nim?

Bobae: Uh, yeah. Why?

Nara: Has Leeha, by any chance, u-

The two ships are sailing side by side. On the left is the Blue Marlin, and on the right is the New Serpent.

Since Kijung, Bobae, and others were gathered near the left stern deck of the New Serpent, if Shin Nara came to the right deck stern of the Blue Marlin, she could see them directly.

However, Shin Nara didn’t go. Not only did she not go, but she also felt a vague sense of frustration for some reason.

Even before Chiyou touched her, there was an uneasy feeling in her heart. It was similar to what Biyemi mentioned.

“Is he not coming to see me? What does he think of me?”

She didn’t think that Leeha did not have feelings for her.

But what about a confrontation? How much did Leeha think about herself?

Her usual personality would have collided directly with Leeha. Serious and clear.

But a single word from Chiyou was making things complicated in Shin Nara’s mind. It was not just a matter of Leeha and Rubini having a good relationship or having favorable feelings. The worry and concern that had grown in her mind were the real issues.

Chiyou had just thrown a spark in another direction, and it was Shin Nara herself who was trying to kindle the fire and fight against it.

Bobae: Leeha-nim… and what? Do you have any message to deliver?

Nara: No. Nothing. If there’s anything strange on the New Serpent, let me know.

Bobae: Uh, yeah. Got it. Take it easy!

After delivering the message to Bobae, Shin Nara focused on the surrounding situation again. Meanwhile, Bobae, along with Hyein and others, was in the middle of an unusual exercise, trying to figure out what kind of response would be appropriate in a hypothetical scenario.

“Now, let’s practice assuming a situation. The question is, ‘Leeha-nim! How did you achieve the achievement of underwater breathing?’ and the questioner is umm… Bald Panda-nim! So, what would be the appropriate behavior?”

“Uh, well…”

“Hehe, do we really need to worry about this?”

Looking at Leeha with a frown, Biyemi laughed as if he found it amusing, but Leeha was quite serious. Another person next to him, Kijung, was also taking it seriously, which seemed quite strange to the members of the Byulcho Guild.

(To be continued…)
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 “Correct! Like, ‘I’ll tell you, but spill the secrets of the Hwangryong Guild…’ or something?”

“Nope! Well, that’s not it, Leeha-nim! Would Bald Panda-nim, the high-ranking commander of the Hwangryong Guild, really reveal any secrets? Besides, even if there were secrets in the Hwangryong Guild, what could Leeha-nim do with that information?”

“Anyway, eong-ah is an idiot. In situations like this, the appropriate response is ‘Hand over the item!’ right?”

“… That’s also wrong, Kay. Haah… How do I even start explaining this?”

Hyein rubbed his forehead. Leeha and Kijung still couldn’t come up with a suitable response. Eventually, Leeha gave up.

“Oh, I don’t know! What should I say? What’s the best thing to say?”

“First, find something that Leeha-nim needs that the other person has. Let’s figure that out first. Bald Panda-nim’s profession is a martial artist! And an agile one at that. So, what’s likely that he has?”

“What does he have?”

“Achievements related to agility! Since they can move around on water!”

“… Ah!”

“After earning a couple of achievements related to agility, reveal only 50% of the hints about the underwater breathing secret. Then, when the opponent is hooked, plunder a few more achievements or item information related to agility, and finally unlock the remaining 40% of the hints.”

“Wait, wait! So you only told 90%, right? What about the promise to tell everything?”

Leeha looked horrified at Hyein’s nonchalant expression. However, Hyein continued to amuse himself by startling Leeha with her serene face.

“What are you talking about? Of course, that’s how it is. Originally, in exploiting someone, you take the benefits without fulfilling the obligations! Those guys who take everything without telling anything are everywhere. So, this is already ‘kindly exploiting them.'”

“… Hyein-nim, is that really you? Has someone else transformed into you?”

Leeha stared at him with a bewildered expression, but Kijung realized something.

“Come to think of it, when Hyein hyung was the guild master…”

“Shh. Kay, don’t say anything more than that.”

How was Byulcho able to establish itself swiftly, despite having little to no reputation? It was because the leader at that time was Hyein.

Now Kijung’s affable and friendly leadership worked, but if he had been the guild master from the beginning, Byulcho might not have gained the same influence it had now. Different situations call for different forms of leadership, and the gentle and approachable leadership of Kijung suited Byulcho’s current state.


“Character! Anyway, Leeha-nim, this is your chance. Today, you can vent your anger, or with this method, users will either leave on their own or start offering all sorts of tributes to you! Today is a special training day for exploiting others!”

Clapping her hands, Hyein even brought out a piece of paper, and the users around couldn’t help but shake their heads as they watched.

A gentle and kind appearance? Thanks to users who judged Hyein based on her outward appearance, Byulcho was able to build a foundation similar to what they had now.

“Ugh, why do I have to learn all this!”

“Kikik, because it’s not boring when you’re with Leeha-ssi.”

Looking at Leeha like that, Biyemi chuckled.

In this historic moment of completely leaving the Dragon Palace’s waters and continuing the longest navigation in the history of Middle Earth, the protagonists were discussing such things.

With no issues in the navigation for 16 days since completely leaving the Dragon Palace’s waters, the users’ health had fully recovered. If we consider the departure from Kraven’s Port as a reference point, it was the 99th day. In other words, it had been 16 days since Leeha received “special training” from Hyein.

“Leeha-nim! Leeha-nim!”

“Ehehe, no, no. How can I fish like this? Besides, it’s all wet now. If you want to store it a bit more, you should salt it.”

“But, but— What else can the heroic Pyro, the fire mage, do?”

“I don’t know, that’s Pyro’s job to figure out. Anyway, disqualified!”

“Uwoooh! Then, let’s settle it with quantity! Is that acceptable?!”

As Leeha firmly shook his head, Pyro excitedly rushed to the deck.

There, a ‘Bald Panda’ and Taoist Mu were sitting side by side on the deck, holding fishing rods.

“Pyro-nim? Just catch it with fishing. Leeha-nim won’t accept it if you catch it with skills.”

“It’s too noisy! How can a man catch something with a fishing rod?! Hng, I’ll settle it with one skill! I just need to adjust the mana a little!”

Mana particles, glowing faintly, quickly gathered around Pyro. Both the Taoist Mu and Bald Panda raised their heads simultaneously.

“Sometimes, there are comrades who go through such hardships. Just let them be.”

“Ohoho, passionate, so passionate.”


Bald Panda commented poetically in Chinese, appreciating Pyro’s actions. However, despite their calm and confident demeanor, what they were doing wasn’t much different from Pyro. It was just a difference in methods, using a fishing rod.

Finally, after finishing the casting, Pyro used his skill towards the sea.

『Exploding Fire 』!”

BOOOOOOOM—

There was nothing emitted from his hand. However, an enormous water column, about 10 meters in diameter, surged up in the direction Pyro pointed. It was a tremendous burst of seawater, so powerful that one might think it would create a hole in the sea.

Divine Message: Triggering Nezha’s skill that seems like an exploding flame at the designated point!

Just as expected, the force was comparable to the explosion of flames. The sea had a temporary hole due to the explosive power.

“Uwaaaah!”

“What, what do we do if he uses a skill like this?”

After a while, the gushing water column poured down like a waterfall on the New Serpent ship.

Bald Panda and Taoist Mu, who had been holding fishing rods, frowned as they shouted at the pouring seawater.

“Euhaha-hat! That’s it! This is what a man’s fishing is all about!”

“What in the—”

“… It’s for sure not normal.”

Pyro paid no attention to their words and wandered around the deck, picking up things that had fallen not only in the seawater but also on the New Serpent ship.

Matching the enormous quantity of water poured like it was poured from a bucket, there were quite a few fish and shellfish inside! Moreover, it seemed like they were cooked like salted steamed fish, thanks to the combination of seawater’s salinity and heat.

“Leeha-nim, please take a look! How about this level? This time, it wasn’t directly hit by the skill and remained uncooked!”

Leeha couldn’t hide his bewilderment as he looked at the fish Pyro had put in a wooden barrel.

‘Isn’t this almost like a momentary nuke? Although it seems extremely reckless, his mana control is perfect. If he used this skill with full mana…’

It was undoubtedly a skill worthy of an expedition leader, but Leela didn’t express admiration or praise.


“Well, it’s a shame, but… okay. Then, Pyro-nim, I’ll give you 3 points.”

“Great-eh!”

Pyro threw an uppercut in the air, celebrating joyfully.

Other users who were scattered around the deck, holding fishing rods like Bald Pand and the Taoist Mu, had already tasted enough.

And watching them, Kijung felt a sense of absurdity.

“… To think that’s exploiting, it’s not particularly amazing in any meaningful sense.”

“Being able to manipulate other expedition members as you wish… After all the education, the only thing they’re doing is ‘getting food’…”

Hyein, who was their exploitation instructor, was equally disappointed.

This marked the 83rd day since leaving the Dragon Palace’s waters, and from the 84th day, Leeha started the ‘exploitation.’ It was precisely this: providing information to the one who obtained the most food until arriving at the new continent.

“Ah, what can I say… He completely misunderstood the concept of exploiting.'”

“The idea of competition among users to increase the value of information was good.”

“It’s funny to see someone unstoppable. Hehe. Can’t stop someone like him.”

Bobae and Biyemi also tilted their heads.

However, from the perspective of Fernand and other NPCs responsible for the sailing schedule, Leeha’s actions were beyond appreciated.

It was from that point onward, where the food supply was almost desperate until arriving at the new continent, that the quantity of food began to increase exponentially due to Leeha’s actions.

During the peaceful sailing where seawater was not coming out, the only way to increase the food supply was fishing. Everyone competing like this was a way to obtain more food.

Some people watched this scene with a smile.

” ‘I will inform the person who obtains the most food about the achievement of underwater breathing’… How do you view this situation, Luger?”

“Everyone is just playing around with that bastard. Leeha is not someone who gives what he has. They’re all being deceived.”

“That’s a precise observation. Behind that innocent smile-”

Kidd and Luger, the trio who knew what Kijung, Hyein, Biyemi, and others didn’t realize.

“-is the full intention to exploit others for their own gain, and no one knows.”

“Since the deceived one is an idiot, there’s nothing we can do. I want to see how frustrated everyone will be when they find out the truth.”

“I agree.”

Kidd and Luger simultaneously chuckled.

They didn’t know exactly, but at least in the concept of understanding Leeha, the trio stood out significantly compared to other users.

The ‘achievement allowing underwater breathing’ refers to being recognized by the Son of the Sea God. It is an achievement that only a user sincerely acknowledged by Drake, the Supreme Commander of Kraven, can receive.

If it was before the exploration of the new continent? With the information received by Leeha, they could have used various methods to increase intimacy with Drake in the Kraven Kingdom.

But now?

“Anyway, it’s not a lie. I’ll tell you what I know, but the only thing is there’s no way to earn recognition from Drake.”

They can’t go to meet Drake! Even if Leeha informed them that Drae was in the Dragon’s Palace, they would be in a situation that required the underwater breathing achievement to go straight to that palace!

Even if Leeha told them the truth, it would become completely useless information. Unaware that their scheme(?) had been exposed by Kidd and Luger, Leeha ruled over users like the captain of the New Serpent ship.

Leeha felt a slight twinge of conscience, but in any case, they were definitely putting what they had learned to use. This was nothing short of true exploitation in its essence.

Kidd and Luger looked confidently at Leeha, sitting upright, then simultaneously looked away. The waves were calm, and the sky was clear.

“Well, anyway… thanks to Leeha, we can enjoy the remaining boat ride, for what it’s worth.”

“The seawater is so scarce, it’s driving me crazy.”

The journey towards the New Continent was already nearing its end.

Departing from the eastern end of the Old Continent and arriving at the western end of the New Continent had been calculated by Fernand to be around 120 days. This was a fact already confirmed by combining information from the mermaids, such as the ‘Center of the Sea.’

Now on the 99th day, in about 21 days, they would reach the New Continent. So, the remaining period was akin to a ‘boat ride’, as Kidd put it.

“I actually think it worked out well.”

“Why?”

In response to Luger’s question, Kidd pointed to the gun belt wrapped around his waist.

Unlike Luger’s 『Pierce』 or Leeha’s 『Accuracy』, Kidd’s 『Quickdraw』 was all about quantity rather than quality.

(To be continued…)
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 While Leeha, active in Team C saved a lot of bullets, Kidd, active in Team A, had significantly depleted his bullet reserves by constantly shooting without rest.

“Ha! No bullets? If Leeha were to fight you to the death, he would have killed you.”

“Huh, do you think I would participate in such a fight?”

“If you don’t participate, what are you going to do? Don’t you remember the atmosphere when we left the waters of the Dragon Palace?”

Kidd nodded in response to Luger’s words. It was indeed a serious situation. The users even tried to create factions for their own benefit and growth.

Apart from straightforward coercion, some subtly extracted information through camaraderie.

“I remember what the Sea God said to Leeha.

‘Bluebeard spreads contamination and corruption, everything in his wake will be corrupted.’ At that time, we all thought it was a skill cast on Leeha. Disgusting jealousy, envy, greed… and on top of that, Ram Hwajung’s threats. It was a mess.”

Kidd reminisced about the situation at that time.

In a way, Leeha’s ‘kind(?) exploitation’ might have been a wise choice to escape the intricate traps of Middle Earth.

Even when Kidd’s thoughts progressed to that point, Luger remained silent. Despite just having a lively conversation, he suddenly closed his mouth. Kidd looked at him, but Luger showed no particular reaction.

“Luger?”

“Hmm? Oh, no. It’s nothing. I was just thinking about whether that Hahi guy will leak achievement information or not.”

Luger hastily opened his mouth. Kidd chuckled briefly. Luger’s expression was somewhat dark.

After smoothly completing the logout rotation and Leeha fully recovering their stamina, they logged back in. The journey was now on the 114th day, approaching its final stages.

“Kraven users are really something. How do they level up just by sailing around on a ship?”

“It’s nothing special; those guys just ride the boat a lot, unlike us, who don’t travel for days after riding it once.”

Kijung responded to Leeha’s complaint. Thanks to Leeha’s exploitation of stocking up on food, they were now in a situation where there was enough food for the next two weeks.

Considering that the journey would end in about a week, there was already plenty of leeway, and Leeha’s tension also relaxed gradually.

“Haaah… Well, that’s true. It’s actually too quiet, and it’s getting boring. I prefer something more dynamic, like the atmosphere in the Dragon Palace area. It doesn’t feel like a game when it’s this calm.”


“Yeah, you’ve been through a lot, eong-ah. Take a break.”

“Taking a break is not as easy as it sounds, Kijung… these days, even the country’s weather is strangely chilly. What about Bobae-ssi?”

“I don’t know. She didn’t tell me anything. Maybe Nara-ssi didn’t tell Bobae-ssi anything either?”

The reason Leeha’s mind was uneasy was because of Shin Nara. Kijung couldn’t help with that.

Leeha sighed again and asked other users nearby. Jin Gonggong, Biyemi, Bobae, and others were logging out in rotation, so there weren’t many users around Leeha and Kijung. Rubini was the one Leeha asked.

“Hmm, I don’t know. What do you think, Rubini-nim?”

“Well, I don’t know.”

“As the one who foresees the future, the Oracle, you can read people’s minds, right? Hehe, I could give you a good fortune if you read her mind. How about it?”

“I only analyze the given information, except when using skills. Reading people’s minds…”

Rubini felt embarrassed by Leeha’s joke and waved her hands.

Leeha laughed playfully, seeing Rubini embarrassed. The reason why Shin Nara treated Leeha coldly was entirely unknown to him.

Not having any interest in what Rubini might be thinking and with the peaceful and leisurely progress of the 114th day of the journey, about half a day passed.

At that point, elmi, the summoner on the Blue Marlin, saw something during her scouting. The reconnaissance information was immediately reported to Alexander and Fernand.

Baaaaang! The door of the cabin swung open forcefully, and Fernand popped out.

“No way, this can’t be true.”

“Why, fernand? Is it the seawater?”

The eyes of the surrounding users focused on him. Fernand’s expression was not good.

“Oh, no. It’s not seawater, but—no, maybe it would have been better if it were seawater.”

“What’s wrong?”

“There’s something that shouldn’t be there! A ship! About 6 km ahead, there’s a ship!”


A ship!

If it were a regular sniper or hunting scenario, there would be no need to snipe from such an unreasonable distance. However, for Leeha, the first concern was the existence of Black Bass’s quest. The devil-like quest could extend the distance indefinitely, and the second concern was the presence of an unknown enemy.

‘Arcane Sniper… the Royal Record mentioned a distance of 10 km.’ Even 6 km seemed too far, almost impossible for a sniper. But a sniper who could succeed in a headshot from 10 km away meant that Leeha could potentially fight an enemy not yet encountered.

“Arcane Sniper… when all the demon armies cross the Dawn Sea, arcane Sniper is said to be among them. What if the remnants of that Demon King’s Army have arrived in the New Continent? What if they are hiding there?”

The most reasonable conclusion for Arcane Sniper’s current location was the New Continent. For Leeha, who couldn’t snipe at a 6 km distance, it meant the possibility of engaging in a 10 km headshot sniper duel. While other users were buzzing about the identity of the ship, Leeha couldn’t focus on such talk.

“It definitely won’t be a user ship. NPC, maybe? Like some human race NPC in the New Continent?”

“The possibility of monsters can’t be ruled out.”

“Monsters? Even if they try to use tools, they can only manage crude weapons. Those creatures can’t even make iron items on their own. Are they supposed to plunder nearby human villages for supplies?”

“That’s talking about monsters on the Old Continent. And they may lack the technology to make iron, but can’t they build a ship? That one is made of wood.”

“But, I mean! Umm, it’s about lacking skills. Craftsmanship? Using well-seasoned wood to build a ship and come this far, aren’t those creatures supposed to be non-existent?”

“I agree with that. If they were monsters from Middle Earth, they would have been designed as life forms adapted to the sea. Like giant moray eels or sea serpents… There were many marine creatures, right? I don’t see a reason to create monsters like that specifically to sail across the sea.”

“I don’t know about that! In the Kraven Sea, if you go north for a long time, there’s a place called ‘Shipwreck Island.’ It’s where the wreckage of sunken ships accumulates like an island. There, ghost ships are said to appear. I led a reconnaissance fleet through there, and it was terrifying…”

The opinions of the expedition members were diverse. They speculated based on information within Middle Earth and approached it from the macro perspective of a virtual reality game. However, without concrete information, it was a natural debate.

“It’s not important whether humans or monsters. What we need to know now is whether they are allies or enemies. If they are allies, it doesn’t matter if they are monsters, and if they are enemies, it doesn’t matter if they are humans.”

Alexander summarized the situation. The primary objective of the New Continent Expedition was to safely arrive at the New Continent. Whatever is on the ship in front of them is not ‘immediately’ important.

Other users had no choice but to agree with that statement. And Leeha knew that the only way to confirm it was to see for themselves. Leeha could feel the gazes directed towards him.

“We have no choice but to see it with our own eyes. We need detailed reconnaissance to do anything.”

Normally, users skilled in stealth and covert operations like Petyr would be the ideal candidates, but currently, they were in uncharted waters, making movement not so easy. However, it was not feasible to use slow boats or large ships.

In the end, it required an individual who could move smoothly underwater, had expertise in reconnaissance, and would not be greatly hindered by being ‘underwater.’ Leeha was the only suitable candidate.

“Can you do it?”


“If Bailephus uses invisibility magic and Hyein uses spatial teleportation first. I’ll give it a try. Blaugrunn, you stay here.”

『Kyukyu!』

More than anything, Leeha believed in himself. Acknowledging Leeha’s response, Alexander nodded.

After about 5 minutes, during which water-resistant magic and various buffs, including the defense enhancement buff from the saint Raphaela and the defense enhancement buff from the Taoist brothers, were applied, the deck of the New Serpent glowed with a dazzling violet light.

(To be continued…)
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 “Sshh—” Leeha straightened his body, feeling a sudden change in the surroundings. Despite being under the effects of the invisibility spell, the turbulence of the seawater could still be visible. Without making a sound, Leeha dived into the seawater, relying only on the minimal noise and the ripples to conceal his entry.

“All right… roughly about 2 km ahead. Let’s go. 『Mermaid Form』.”

『Please select the area to transform.』 『Head/Upper Body/Arms/Lower Body/Feet』

“Hmm… Lower Body.”

『Please select the transformation type.』 『Flatfish/Dory/Fish/Moray Eel or Squid』

“Ugh… Heard people talk about looking alike, but who would’ve thought I’d transform? Ugh, squid!”

Shwaaaak! In an instant, Leeha’s lower body transformed into that of a squid. Ten tentacle-like legs wiggled in the water.

“What?! How do I move this thing?”

It wasn’t easy to adapt to suddenly having to control ten legs.

It took several attempts to get the hang of moving the expanded set of legs. About 10 minutes later, after struggling with sinking and gulping water several times, Leeha finally figured out a way to move.

It was not easy to float in the water, and it took quite a while to figure out how to move.

“The longest leg must be my own leg”, Leeha thought. The two longest legs, referred to as squid arms, seemed to have the same sensation as his own legs, while the other eight smaller legs felt like automatic assistants for the two main legs.

“Okay, let’s go now.”

Ssshh— Leeha completely submerged in the water, initiating his underwater exploration. The squid legs of the transformed lower body cut through the water like a missile, extending his body forward. Unlike the sensation of swimming through the Dragon Palace as a transformed fish, this experience brought a new feeling to Leeha, and his tentacle-like tail automatically moved.

“Haha! Feels refreshing, doesn’t it? Imagining catching and grilling this guy for a meal, how tormenting would that be.”

The charm of Middle Earth was creating joy and fantasies simultaneously. Leeha wanted to share this scene and sensation with others, thinking, “I’ll record this scene now and later claim an achievement for having such a skill—”

He chuckled, thinking about how this might silence Pyro, the current leader in food points, who was bound to get excited once Leeha revealed the Drake Quest. Leeha was considering using this information to his advantage.

“Still, it’s a bit unfortunate that some users lack the skills to utilize the information I provided. Well, it can’t be helped.”

Chuckling, Leeha’s laughter bubbled up in the form of underwater bubbles.

Currently, the top-ranked in food points was the Fire Mage Pyro. Knowing about the Drake Quest, Pyro was likely to get excited and seek guidance. Leeha planned to use the current data to calm him down when the time came.


“If we get involved… Pyro might just tag along. It won’t be a loss for him either.”

Whether Pyro would agree was uncertain, but Leeha didn’t dwell on it. The underwater view of the ship’s bottom began to unfold as he floated on the surface.

“They’are small! But there are quite a few!? One, two, three… twenty-two ships? Twenty-two ships gathered?”

The ships were not large, perhaps resembling large sailboats rather than the combat ships that Kraven referred to as “battleships.”

However, their numbers were significant. Leeha relayed real-time information to Fernand and Alexander, making them aware that as long as they didn’t use the detection magic continuously, they would not be able to see him due to the invisibility spell cast by Bailephus.

Ssh- The top of Leeha’s head emerged from the water. The ships huddled together and swayed lightly in the waves. The ships only had two masts and Leeha estimated that they were only 1/6 of the size of the new continent expedition ships.

“Still, a ship is a ship. The deck won’t be visible just by poking my head out here.”

Leeha approached one of the outermost ships, the reason for transforming his lower body into a squid was to be able to climb the rope ladder hanging on the ship’s outer wall.

Leeha carefully examined his surroundings while starting to climb the rope ladder. He grabbed it with one arm and lifted his leg. The squid legs gracefully ascended, wrapping around the rope ladder. Then, he raised the other arm and lifted the other leg.

“Is it okay?”

The movement was the same as when he had human legs, but oddly enough, it felt more comfortable. The small legs automatically assisting him seemed to know exactly what Leeha wanted.

Climbing the short rope ladder, Leeha finally grasped the railing of the deck, raising his head slowly. Despite being under the transparency spell, sounds could be heard. If someone came to check, even the “wet” rope ladder might be visible. That couldn’t happen.

“As inconspicuous as possible… Perfect scouting—Huh?!”

Leeha had to momentarily stop breathing to avoid making any noise. What moved on the deck was undoubtedly different from monsters.

“… Human? No, not exactly human—”

Comparing it to the back of monkeys or how they moved swiftly for something, it was clear that it wasn’t the same.

“… Primitive beings? NPCs of a humanoid race. If I can see their faces, it’ll be more definitive, but… Most of them showed only their backs or side views as they moved quickly. However, just that was enough to distinguish them from monkeys.”

Their appearance differed significantly from monkeys. They wore roughly made trousers, mostly leaving their upper bodies uncovered, and had no animal-like fur on their bodies. Instead, various tribal tattoos were drawn on their skin.

“They seem shorter than dwarves but sturdier. Quite a few of them look robust. Indeed, these small ships might be useful. But… what are they planning?”

Observing the situation on one ship revealed the decks of the other ships lined up. With twenty-two ships, their numbers were substantial.


“The atmosphere of their bustling movements seems quite serious. Finally, I can see their faces.”

The smallest one was estimated to be around 140 cm, and the largest was about 160 cm. Their height was similar to dwarves, but their sturdy physique was different.

“They have facial tattoos! All the facial tattoos are the same.”

Their dark-skinned faces were adorned with a red “goat’s head.”

Horns extended on both sides of their foreheads, goat eyes were straight slits on their cheeks, and an overall sleek goat face shape.

“All of them have the same tattoo without exception.”

Despite different physiques and upper body tattoos, they all had the same “face”, making Leeha feel uneasy. Just as he was about to descend to investigate the situation on other ships, he heard their voices.

“Red Goat! They’re coming!”

“Red Goat, prepare. We must suppress them.”

“Red Goat!”

A language that Leeha could perfectly understand, free from the strange noises of monsters, it was a flawless human language.

“Red Goat! It seems communication is possible. Well, the fact that communication is possible and that it’s an actual conversation are different matters. I couldn’t communicate with mermaids, even if language could be understood. I’ll only gather objective information and avoid hasty subjective judgments.”

Leeha focused on collecting objective information rather than delving into the content of the conversation. The fact that communication was possible was unusual in itself.

“Who are these coming? To suppress them… War? Battle?”

While the capability to communicate was recognized, Leeha wasn’t hasty in making judgments. Twenty-two ships arriving for any reason other than fishing was not something ordinary.

“I see, using sails isn’t enough. Indeed, with these small ships, sails alone wouldn’t be sufficient. Unfurling two masts, the sides of the mast extended from the rope ladder, and a sail emerged from there. The ship began to move slowly.”

“Who would be rowing the oars? War? Battle?”

Leeha was astonished at the sudden acceleration, as the ship, despite being small, gained speed rapidly. It was an unexpectedly fast pace for a place where the wind wasn’t strong.

“Who on earth is rowing the oars? Ah!”

Sudden, thunderous, and vibrant noises reverberated, shaking Leeha’s mind. On the other side of his field of view, more ships appeared.


“Maybe these ‘Red Goats’ were referring to them as ‘those guys.’ Are they also in humanoid form?”

Leeha wanted to confirm. Since he was under the invisibility spell, they couldn’t see him, but he decided to be cautious of possible blind attacks.

However, it was Leeha’s misjudgment. The guy who had been telling him to prepare for an attack now let out a booming roar.

“He must have swallowed a steam whistle or something; the voice was tremendous.”

“Red Goat!”

Following him, the others shouted at the same time. The reddish glow on the twenty-two ships flashed at that moment.

“All those guys on the ships seem to be using some kind of skill simultaneously, emitting a level of brightness that couldn’t be looked at with open eyes.”

“Ugh!”

Closing his eyes tightly, waiting for the light to subside for a moment, Leeha opened his eyes again. Thankfully, there was no cardiac arrest.

“Whoa, what is this? What’s going on?!”

Before Leeha’s eyes, the visage of the Red Goat’s leader was being forced in. It wasn’t like before, with a human-like face and tattoos. It was undoubtedly the head of a beast, the ‘head of a goat’ that was ripped horizontally.

“If I breathe, its nose hair will flutter; that’s how close it is. The horizontally torn goat’s pupils rolled as if it were about to lick Leeha’s face.”

“It’s a real goat. A real red goat… Transformation? Moreover… Can they see me?”

Leeha was skeptical. It made no sense. This was Bailephus’s Ancient Gold Dragon-level invisibility spell. There was no way the magic could be dispelled, and they hadn’t used detection magic.

However, he had to admit it. The goat clearly sensed Leeha.

“What is this?”

The goat’s nostrils quivered.

Terrifyingly, Leeha activated the Stealth skill. Swwaaahhh…! Due to the invisibility spell, the light from the skill was not visible, and no sound could be heard.

However, the goat that had thrust its head in front of Leeha turned its head as if realizing Leeha had disappeared.

“Red Goat, what’s going on?”

“I smelled something strange. It was the smell of squid… No, it was the first time I smelled squid.”

“Squid, red Goat?”

“No, full speed ahead. Relay the message to the rowers.”

“Red Goat!”

After a while, the rowing became even more vigorous.

“What is that? Human?”

“Human, no, can’t really call it human. It has a monkey tail, and all the members transform into the same appearance…”

“Hmm, in terms of communication, they don’t seem to be ordinary monsters.”

Listening to the reconnaissance information, the expeditionary force to the new continent fell into further confusion. Were they enemies or allies? The reconnaissance was meant to confirm whether these creatures could harm the users of the expeditionary force, but at that point, there was no certainty.

(To be continued…)
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 “It’s fascinating. In some ways, it’s similar to druids transforming into animal forms. If we had someone like Jin Gonggong, we could have confirmed it.”

Hyein expressed regret. Because he thought of it as a form of the Polymorph skill, he believed it could be possible, but those who experienced it didn’t think the same way.

“No. If it were Jin Gonggong’s transformation, we’ve seen it several times. While complete transformation into the respective animal is possible, it’s limited to whispers. As far as I’ve seen, there’s no Polymorph skill that allows one to walk around on two legs like a bright red goat. That’s a different category…”

“That’s right. It’s not a skill that transforms into an animal. It’s more like reinforcing… enhancing your body with the energy of an animal. A sort of possession.”

Leeha was approaching the concept of infusing the energy of an animal into one’s own body. The somewhat eerie explanation made other users gulp and swallow.

“Too bad! It would have been great to confirm what those red goats were fighting against.”

“It would have been impossible even for a Leeha if they noticed my magic. Immediate retreat would have been the correct answer. They might have nullified invisibility using some kind of magic. Even with considerable magic detection, it seems impossible to catch them. Hmm… Did those guys really nullify invisibility?”

Kijung expressed disappointment, but Bailephus praised Leeha’s judgment while also questioning the mana of the unknown individuals. Leeha, however, couldn’t be sure about that.

“It’s unlikely that invisibility was nullified. If they had nullified it, they would have asked, ‘Who are you?’ when I released the spell. The guy only sensed me to some extent, saying there was something unseen here. Definitely something… that’s how he put it.”

“Instinctively noticed my invisibility spell, huh?”

Bailephus merely nodded, and despite being an Ancient Dragon, his knowledge was limited when it came to the new continent.

Even with such a significant keyword mentioned, it was clear that he wouldn’t provide further hints.

“Is that really all, Ha Leeha-ssi?”

“What do you mean? Do you think I’m hiding something?”

“No, no. Just asking. Why so sensitive? It’s just a question.”

Chiyou chuckled. While looking at her face, Leeha suddenly noticed Shin Nara standing behind Chiyou.

Shin Nara briefly met Leeha’s gaze but quickly averted her eyes.

“Nara-ssi..”

Leeha felt frustrated by Shin Nara’s inexplicable behavior, but in this situation, there was nothing he could say.

Instead, someone else spoke up for him.


“Chiyou-nim, there’s no need to doubt Ha Leeha-nim’s words. This is a time for us to come together, so let’s avoid such remarks.”

“Huhut, Rubini-ssi seems to really like Leeha-ssi.”

“What are you talking about—”

“Just think about it, does Nara-ssi feel the same way?”

And Chiyou was waiting for that moment, the moment when Rubynee would step forward for Leeha.

‘Really, dislikable human. Do they think Nara-ssi would say anything just because they do? Whether they are an extraordinary enemy or something else hasn’t been revealed yet. But even if not, Chiyou, I really don’t like you—’

Leeha found it amusing to see Chiyou seeking Shin Nara’s opinion, especially when Chiyou had been thinking Leeha did nothing but despicable things.

“Well, if you guys like it, that’s fine. My mission is just to safely arrive on the new continent, so let’s focus on that for now, Chiyou-ssi.”

“What should we do, then, Chiyou-ssi?”

“Yes, yes, of course. So, how should we proceed?”

“Just a moment, Nara-ssi—”

“Buhit! What’s the big deal? Have we all forgotten how we got here?”

Leeha tried to grab Shin Nara, but Shin Nara took a step back.

With the discussion led by Petyr, the atmosphere swiftly shifted again.

There was no time for private conversations, and considering Petyr’s proactive opinions, fernand released the thoughts he had been holding onto.

“Ha Leeha-ssi, the ship was small, right? How many people are on board?”

“Hmm? Ah, yes.”

“What about food?”

“Food?”

“Yes. With twenty-two ships, each with many people, and a small ship with only two masts. And if there are fishermen, there should be even more passengers. Although they’re smaller than humans, if they’re like NPC races, those guys must eat… Could they carry a lot of food?”


“No, it would have been challenging.”

If there were plenty of provisions stored below deck, it might have been possible, but below that, there would be spaces allocated for the fishermen. Fernand was indeed a born adventurer.

“Right. That makes sense. Then the answer is clear.”

“What are you thinking, fernand?”

Alexander asked as Fernand nodded.

“Ha Leeha-ssi, the ship may have been small, but we arrived at the new continent sooner than expected. We made it here quickly. It won’t take more than a week. Considering the maximum, it would be within four days. You mentioned that the small ship was faster than expected, but anyway, with such a small ship, they couldn’t have ventured far out into the ocean.”

“… We should move at night.”

“Yes. Carefully. Chiyou-ssi’s map, Jin Gonggong-ssi’s transformation, Yongyong-nim’s pet, elmi-nim’s hawk, and Ha Leeha-nim’s eyes—activate all scouting abilities.”

It meant finding a safe anchoring point somewhere on the new continent while avoiding detection.

 In other words, it meant achieving the second requirement of the New Continent quest and, in fact, the minimum condition for success.

“Everyone, except the minimum number of people required to operate the ship, should log out and rest. After logging in with all of the logout rotation members-” Alexander’s command was quick.

“-we will enter the New Continent.”

There were about 30 hours left in Middle Earth time until the users who had left were able to log in. They would all log in together right before entering the new continent.

Approximately six hours later, the final navigation towards anchoring on the new continent was about to begin. A short rest and reorganization were on the agenda.

The users had enough time to rest. By the time everyone had logged in, the New Serpent and Blue Marlin ships had already changed direction and moved a few hours away.

Even if they were still present, they probably couldn’t see this far, but caution was necessary. The creatures capable of detecting Dragon’s invisibility spell required extra vigilance. While long-range scouting wouldn’t be conducted due to the nature of the ship, they still needed to be careful.

‘Even if they haven’t been here until now, we should be more cautious. If they’ve sensed our presence, they might be making efforts to confirm it.’

There had never been a case where ships came from ‘beyond the sea’ for them so far. But now?

If they had sensed Leeha’s presence, it made more sense to put effort into confirming that. It was a common opinion among the members of the New Continent Expeditionary Force to be cautious if there was even a 1% chance of danger.

“The sun is setting soon.”


“So far, we haven’t found any danger underwater, in the air, or anywhere else. It seems they haven’t noticed us yet. How about the mast, Leeha-nim?”

“Nothing on this side either. It seems we can start getting ready.”

The sun was already heading into the western sea.

Listening to Leeha’s announcement, fernand and the Kraven users responsible for navigation, began their final checks on the weather and direction.

“The wind is perfect, but it’s a shame that we don’t have Drake’s Sailing skill. If we had the skill to nullify waves, we could increase our speed by more than three times.”

“Just having acceleration is fortunate enough. Anyway, we need to use every skill available.”

Fernand estimated that it would take about four days for them to anchor on the new continent with their normal sailing speed. However, the time given until the sun rose again was approximately 12 hours.

Even using all their skills, they wouldn’t make it in that time. Even with maximum effort, it would take at least two days.

Therefore, they planned to cover as much distance as possible before sunrise and strengthen their perimeter defenses afterward.

Then, when the sun set again, the plan was to make a final sprint and dock at the New Continent.

“Adjusted to the northeast! Now, just increase the speed”, reported Fernand with a determined expression to Alexander.

The leader of the New Continent Expeditionary Force nodded and met the eyes of each user gathered around.

“It’s the final stretch. With me here, there’s nothing to fear.”

The confidence of the number one-ranked player was not just arrogance, and now even the users knew that. Approaching this closely meant that even in the worst-case scenario, Alexander and Bailephus might reach their destination!

It served as insurance against quest failure. Of course, no user wanted everyone to perish and only escape quest failure. Briefings for unforeseen situations had been prepared based on each person’s experience, and users were well-versed in coping strategies and situational scenarios.

There was no need to delay any further.

“Let’s go”, Alexander said.

There was no response from the members of the New Continent Expeditionary Force. They understood that there was no need to delay any further; their mighty ships were their tickets to the new continent.

“Full speed ahead!”

Therefore, Alexander’s command was simple.

The members of the expeditionary force did not respond. Perhaps they thought that the noise of their large ships should not reach the enemies’ ears.

A bit of excitement lingered, but more than that, there was a sense of determination. The users returned to their assigned ships.

All sails began to swell as the wind caught them.

It was when the sun had just dipped below the sea.

“Speed up!”

“Let’s go, speed up!”

Suddenly, two massive ships began to increase their speed in the darkened sea.

The sea was calm, but the users, even though they knew there was no enemy in the vicinity due to the thorough scouting by Druids, pets, and summons, couldn’t help but feel uneasy in the unexpectedly quiet environment.

‘Even if it’s known, they can’t appear this quickly. But it’s too quiet; it makes me uneasy.’

While cutting through the dark sea, a red light flashed on the deck.

Rubini had used her Area Mapping skill, revealing the vast map.

Despite being known, the sea remained calm without a hint of an enemy. This fact, while comforting, also raised concerns for Leeha.

“The sea creatures are the ones that make navigation challenging. This is precisely why Kraven designated the area just before sea creatures appeared as their territorial waters.”

In other words, the absence of sea creatures might be because the New Continent is indeed very close. There were three main assumptions for this phenomenon.

Firstly, the issue of depth. It was assumed that sea creatures might be active in shallower waters.

Secondly, salinity levels. Although it’s the sea, the difference between coastal and open sea waters is significant. Therefore, it was speculated that sea creatures may only be active in the central ocean areas, and not in the coastal waters adjacent to the continent.

And lastly, the third reason…

“…they systematically killed off the sea creatures as they appeared.”

Since these were monsters, it was natural that they would respawn after a certain amount of time. However, the possibility of such a setting couldn’t be ruled out.

While the ships were small, their basic maneuverability, based on sail power, was smoother than the sea creatures. The threatening appearance of the red goats that Leeha had observed also aligned with the assumption of such a setting.

“Their presence was substantial…”

(To be continued…)
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 With a snort and a puff, the goat leader spewed out its breath. Who wouldn’t be surprised to see a goat acting like that? However, beyond this spectacle, Leeha could infer something from their appearance.

The strength of these creatures clearly surpassed the usual level of monsters.

“Originally, the setting sent users of this level to explore the new continent. If that’s the case, they must have designed it to be a stage where tremendously powerful entities are active.”

Even the mermaids encountered on the way here displayed immense strength. What about the NPCs of the new continent? If there were monsters, what level would they be? What about the items, achievements, quests, and rewards obtained by hunting these creatures?

“I wonder how my Black Bass will fare. Ah, yes! There might be creatures with exceptional vision among the monsters in the new continent. If they are far superior to the monsters of the old continent… Perhaps I could use them as materials to make a new scope?”

Leeha suddenly thought of the original reason why the new continent expedition came this far— they were looking for Bluebeard and the Demon King’s Fragments.

What if they woke up? ‘Hmm, that’s a bit tricky. The city’s income has just started to get back on track, and if go back to the old continent and create chaos… No, no.”

Leeha had a practical reason why he wanted to stop Bluebeard. Although he was not able to go to Gaza City right now, he could infer it timing-wise. If there had been no major incidents so far, steward NPC Paytor would have filled the vault well enough. The only thing that could turn all that income into nothing was the Demon King’s Fragments. Regardless of what happens, that must be prevented.

The users moved according to the plans they made just before departure. Their movement was all about caution and vigilance. The fishing was over as of yesterday. In the silence and darkness of the voyage, there was no one showing signs of boredom.

Until the day broke. As soon as the sun rose, a sparse voice was heard.

“… Just endure for one more day. We’re almost there! Yongyong-nim’s hawk found seagulls!”

Fernand’s cheekbones seemed to protrude.

“Really?!”

“Seagulls?”

“Isn’t that the Giant Albatross or something? Are they real seagulls?”

“Yes! Real seagulls! We’ve finally arrived!”

Users, who had been tense and contemplative all night, were suddenly overwhelmed with excitement. Leeha, on the mast, also clenched his fists in joy.

‘Very good! It seems we safely passed through the place where those creatures were. Have they all gone back?’

Leeha was concerned that the creature who was able to sense him when he was invisible was waiting for them. Now, it was not a concern anymore. The appearance of the seagulls and the sudden narrowing of the gap are both evidence of a safe passage.

“We’ve arrived now! If we endure for another 24 hours, we’ll finally arrive! All expedition members, please carry out special reconnaissance and vigilance!”


Excitement surged as Fernand’s announcement echoed. According to his call, users explored their surroundings using every skill and item at their disposal.

Don’t appear. Don’t appear.

As if praying, everyone’s intentions unified into one.

Above all, as the ship advanced, the sea, changing from a blue to an emerald color, excited the users.

“No, they are not here. Finally! Finally!”

Indeed, that reconnaissance was the answer. If they had advanced the ship without looking around at that time, they would have been disturbed for sure. Leeha thought that there was not a single useless achievement among the skills and achievements they had gained so far, including the mermaid transformation skill. Thus, noon passed, and it became afternoon. And the journey remained peaceful until evening. The ship didn’t move fast, but everyone knew it was to gain propulsion after the sunset.

“The sun is setting… Let’s prepare for the final spurt. Rodin-nim, eunchon-nim! Go up to the mast and prepare the searchlights! Depending on the shape of the coast, our docking distance may vary, so there is a high chance we’ll have to use boats at the end. Kraven team, be ready to get off the ship immediately!”

As the water depth decreased, the New Serpent and Blue Marlin ships could no longer proceed. There was a risk of grounding. From the time the sea turned red until the complete sunset, all preparations were already finished. There were no abnormal signals in any reconnaissance tools.

Now, only one thing remained.

“Full speed ahead——!”

“Let’s go, let’s go, go—!”

“Woohahaha, we’ve made it! We’ve arrived! faster, faster!”

With the acceleration skill, the two ships shot forward like arrows. Leeha, who had descended from the mast, extended his upper body as if he would be bounced off the bow and stared ahead. It happened to be a bright night.

“The visibility is bright. Good. Is it so good because it’s the reward for all the hard work? Or is Middle Earth helping to finish it cleanly and perfectly?”

As the moon passed over the head and a little beyond, about four or five hours remained until dawn! According to Chiyou and Rubini’s map and Leeha’s eyes, ‘it’ appeared.

“Is that it? Huh… It’s visible… Land… it’s here.”

“Land! We see land! Woohaha! Land, land! Look, fernand-ssi!”

The sight of the land gradually rising as if standing beyond the horizon.

Even in the eyes of users, who had absorbed enough light from the bright moon and the ship’s searchlights, it was visible. As the ship progressed, the black on the sea gradually expanded. Finally, from this side to the other end of the horizon, a vast continent was clearly visible.

“Increase the speed! Increase the speed!”


“We’re already at maximum speed! Hey! Kraven’s rookies! Prepare the boats! Illuminate them well with searchlights! If you misjudge the depth, you might hit the ground when you come all the way here!”

Captain Burke also joined the excitement, saying, “Don’t worry, I know what to do since we’re already doing it!”

Excited users buzzed around.

“Rubini-nim! Can you convert it into a 3D map? I need to investigate the nearby depths! Elmi-nim! Yongyong-nim, and Jin Gonggong-nim, please move for underwater reconnaissance!”

Fernand also hurriedly moved. His efforts to approach the continent as closely as possible without grounding the two ships paid off. Two more hours passed like that.

“It’s a typical convergent coast structure, most likely a combination of a coastal cliff and a coastal terraced coastline… It seems difficult to dock in this direction—Ah! Sands! Over there— Ha Leeha-ssi! Please check over there, is it a sandy beach?!”

Fernand, who was looking for a suitable docking place, made a fuss again. All searchlights and light magic were focused in the direction his finger pointed. Although it was not much light, it was enough for Leeha’s eyes.

“There is a sandy beach! It’s the coast!”

“Great! Captain Burke! Stop!”

“We’ve already stopped!”

Before Leeha’s words finished, burke and Hook made the two ships stop. In an instant, the anchors were thrown, and the boats descended to the surface.

“Only those who don’t want to go to the new continent can stay behind! Jump on board!”

Hook was the first to jump onto the boat. There was no one who didn’t want to go. The 5 boats lowered from the New Serpent and Blue Marlin carried a total of 42 members, including 40 members of the new continent expedition, Fibiel’s General Inspector Shin Nara, and Bailephus. They swiftly headed towards the new continent.

In the dark night, the silhouette beyond the sandy beach was not clearly visible.

“Alexander-nim! New continent discovered – Isn’t it that we all step on the land together? No one is going to teleport first, right?”

There was no way the users did not know about the discovery experience.

Some users were shocked at Taoist Baeju’s words.

At the same time, there was a question about whether experience points would be divided by stepping simultaneously. Nevertheless, many users thought that they would be the first to step, even if it was just 1mm faster, amid such thoughts.

“Of course. Everyone steps on the land simultaneously.”

Alexander nodded. If a betrayer emerged within this agreement, they would have to turn the rest into enemies.


“But… what are those silhouettes? When I briefly illuminated them with the searchlight earlier, they looked like trees.”

The docking location had already been confirmed. The majority of the new continent’s coast consisted of towering rocks and rugged cliff-like terrain, with a small sandy beach at the center. The group was heading in that direction.

“I also thought they looked like trees, but… aren’t they too big? Are there trees that big?”

However, they hadn’t confirmed beyond the sandy beach and the coastal terraced terrain from the ship.

As the boat approached the sandy beach, the gradually revealed silhouettes emitted an eerie aura.

“Indeed. If the mountainous terrain continues from this cliff, it might make sense, but in that shape, it’s impossible…” What raised questions among the users was the ‘forest’ that started abruptly as soon as the sandy beach ended.

Initially, they thought it was a mountain, but upon closer inspection, it wasn’t. The appearance was as if gigantic trees densely covered the flatland just behind the plain.

‘It might look bigger at night. There are more trees higher than most skyscrapers.’

The numerous trees planted on the plain suddenly rose abruptly from the point where the sandy beach ended, reaching at least over 100 meters. A massive wall made of trees. Like a barrier delineating someone’s territory.

Swoosh!

As the sound of gentle waves echoed once more, the five boats finally came to a halt. The boat’s keel sank into the sand, and the sensation reached even the legs of those on board.

“Is everyone ready?”

Users, positioned at the edge of the boat like track and field athletes waiting for the starting gun, were preparing.

“Let’s go!”

Splash!

And just as promised, everyone leaped simultaneously towards the coast of the new continent.

Whose foot touched the ground first? Fortunately, Middle Earth showed mercy.

Swoosh!

『You have discovered the new continent Erika.』

『You have gained discovery experience points.』

『Congratulations, everyone! The new continent Erika has finally been explored.』

『The map on the Middle Earth official website will be updated.』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

Hwaaaaa———!

Achievement notifications, as well as various system notifications, covered the users’ view. Even if they wanted to read it properly, the dazzling white light emitted by users, including Leeha, disturbed their vision.

“Arr———ival is com—–plete!”

“Wahaha! Look at us leveling up! Look at us leveling up!”

“Amazing! We haven’t even completed the quest, and what’s up with the discovery experience points?!”

“Hehe, who cares about that? Anyway, it’s over! We’ve decorated a page in Middle Earth’s history!”

If shedding tears were possible, the seasoned users would have shed tears. Memories of the many challenges they faced to reach this point, the nightmares of entering the Dragon Palace’s territory where they encountered numerous powerful sea monsters, and the hardships and struggles surpassing even overtime in a company or the preparation days before an exam, all flashed through their minds.

After that, the days of chaos where they vied for each other’s items and information, and the political maneuvering they attempted were etched in their memories.

All of that had led to this moment.

“Bobaeeee-ssi!”

“Kijung-ssi!”

Kijung lifted Bobae high into the air, hugging her tightly. The users around, including Hyein and Jinsung, had smiles of joy on their faces.

(To be continued…)
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 “Good job, Luger.”

“I didn’t go through all this trouble to hear that kind of compliment from you.”

Kidd patted Luger’s shoulder, but Luger just grumbled and didn’t remove his hand.

Kidd smiled and extended his hand.

“Aren’t you going to shake it?”

“… Damn it.”

Snap!

Luger and Kidd high-fived.

The joy wasn’t exclusive to them. Pei Wu and Bald Panda, and Taoist Baeju and Taoist Mu embraced each other. Even Petyr, with laughter, extended his hand to Biyemi. Of course, Biyemi didn’t reciprocate the gesture, raising her tail in response to Petyr’s attempt to act friendly. Pirate users and Giant users alike gathered for screenshots or started recording without any reservations. In that moment of shared happiness, a shadow came running towards Leeha.

“Oppa!”

Her blue hair shimmered in the moonlight. Leeha recalled some past nightmares, but Ram Hwajung, disregarding it all, rushed into Leeha’s embrace.

“Agh! Ram Hwajung-ssi! Another tackle like this-”

“Leeha-nim!”

“Rubini-nim, are you okay? My arm… my arm!”

Even with Ram Hwajung tightly held in her arms, Rubini was also tightly gripping one of Leeha’s arms. Meanwhile, Leeha glanced at Shin Nara from a distance, who was holding her fist and walking around, seemingly avoiding eye contact with Leeha. Leeha couldn’t understand. Just before Leeha looked at Shin Nara, she had been gazing at him but diverted her gaze.

“We finally made it, we really made it!”

“Oppa, we did it.”

“It’s not something I could have done alone, but… thank you all for your hard work.”

Shaaai—

At that moment, the appearance of Blaugrunn, who appeared above Leeha’s head, added to the joy with its cheerful cries. Even in the midst of this, there were a few users who couldn’t smile. The radiant glow of leveling up, the meaning of which was emanating from the entire expedition to the new continent, was something else. While other users were rejoicing, Lee Jiwon felt a complex emotion to the extent that he ignored the fact that he had leveled up.


“Is Alexander really level 300 for real?”

Alexander, the first player in Middle Earth to reach the maximum level, had leveled up as well.

At the ranker level, a difference of 1 stat point is a tremendous difference. Depending on the situation, the efficiency of stat point investment can be as high as tenfold compared to low levels! This is because the efficiency of stat investment is not set to be the same as in low levels.

“Ah… I see. Alexander also leveled up…”

Since the Phase 3 announcement, he hadn’t responded to anyone, including Leeha, who asked, but he couldn’t hide the level-up effect.

“It seems the wall has finally broken.”

“Congratulations. Partner.”

“Thank you, bailiphus. With this, I won’t be lacking in our future endeavors together.”

“I’m grateful just for the determination to enforce justice.”

Alexander exchanged a firm handshake with Bailiphus, who had a somewhat touched expression. Somehow, Leeha’s nose felt itchy.

“Even if you are not overflowing with joy, I thought that there would be something like a hug of gratitude.”

“Well, it does feel like Alexander after all.”

“That’s right. Still, it’s fortunate that we know the secret of Phase 3. Hmm, when will I hit level 300?”

“Bobae-ssi, you leveled up too, so it’s fine. Your experience should be around 50% by now, right?”

“Well then, what can I say? Leveling up from here is like hell. I have no idea when I can fill the remaining experience points.”

Leeha, Ram Hwajung, and Rubini were surrounded by Byulcho guild members, watching Alexander’s figure. The event of the first-place ranker reaching the maximum level was a moment dominated by a kind of reverence, where even jealousy wasn’t present.

“Everyone! Everyone! It’s amazing to be so happy! We’ve only taken the first small step! To truly take the ‘great first step’!”

Fernand, clapping his hands, induced the concentration of users. And when everyone’s gaze focused, he pointed at the still-docked New Serpent and Blue Marlin.

“We need to build a mana relay tower! Let’s divide the manpower and resources needed to operate the ships. Hyein and Bailiphus, please help with the teleport. Others, let’s find a place to build the mana relay tower!”

“Right decision, fernand.”


“Of course, I’m an explorer and an adventurer! We’ve grown this much with the discovery experience, but what about completing the quest? I can’t even imagine!”

Fernand trembled with joy. In this joyous situation, he was more excited than usual, and even Alexander chuckled, shaking his head in amusement. The members of the New Continent Expeditionary Force did not need to wait for Fernand’s additional instructions.

Since each knew what they had to do, immediate action would be more helpful.

The moment Fernand jumped onto the boat with excitement,

“Okay, then everyone, let’s move—”

“Le—t’s Go—! Hwaaaaaaaak———-!”

“Uwaa!? What’s this?!”

“Ah, my eyes!”

Behind the sand dunes, from the middle of the towering pillars of trees that seemed to pierce the sky, a burst of red light erupted. Other users hastily covered their eyes due to the sudden outpouring of light, but Leeha was different.

He recognized this voice, this light; he had experienced it for real!

‘Red goats!’

Was that what they were called? No, considering the timing and the location where they used that ‘transformation’ skill!

“Go back! To your land! This is not a warning!”

The voice of the goats echoed as they collided with the thick pillars of wood.

Beyond the deafening noise, through the rustling wind, Leeha heard a sound.

“Everyone, defend! Lord Bailiphus!”

“Extra Barrier!”

The Gold Dragon used a magic spell without hesitation to encompass all the surrounding users.

Most of the users who were either celebrating the arrival of the New Continent or making noise were included in it.

“Wait, over there—”


However, one person couldn’t get inside. Someone who didn’t want to be with anyone, no, tried not to be. Shin Nara, with her sword drawn, stared at the incoming ranged attacks. Bobae became contemplative, and Kijung shouted. But Shin Nara didn’t hear it. No, even if she did, it was already too late. The ranged attacks thrown by the red goats caught fire in mid-air.

It was like a wall of fire created in the enclosed forest, a fire rain.

“Ah, ah…”

Shin Nara tried to block it. If it were just simple arrow-ranged attacks, they wouldn’t dare to strike her. However, the giant forest was not far from the sandy plain, and there were too many and fast-fire arrows directed at her. Shin Nara’s pupils shook. Was she to die so meaninglessly, just after arriving at the New Continent? She shook her head unconsciously. She couldn’t afford to be bewildered. She had to do everything to survive!

“No—”

Swish—!

Just before she tried to fend off the attacks, a silhouette suddenly appeared in front of her. The silhouette hugged her tightly.

“Of course, you should hate it! That’s how you should be, Shin Nara-ssi!”

-Swirl-

The first step had begun.

Pa-pa———————!

Dozens of fiery arrows poured down on Leeha’s back as he held Shin Nara.

“Leeha hyung———-!”

Kijung screamed. From the moment the red light burst forth along with the cry of the Red Goats, Leeha’s thoughts accelerated rapidly.

‘I was too careless. I should have kept Rubini’s skill activated!’

In the euphoria of finally stepping on the land of the New Continent, all tension had dissipated. He knew that the New Continent, even with Rubini’s skill, was always ready to target them at any moment! However, regret came too late, and the echoes were already audible.

“Go back! To your land! This is not a warning!”

The thunderous shout confused the members of the New Continent Expedition, but even within that chaos, some found their tasks. Pei Wu counted the number of Red Goats on the wooden pillars and beneath Elmi, summoned creatures were slowly rising. Just because they suffered a surprise attack didn’t mean their weapons and skills disappeared. Members of the New Continent Expedition quickly calculated their own and the ‘enemy’s’ strengths.

“We have to attack!”

“If it’s red, there’s a high probability of fire-type skills. Cast with a focus on neutralizing attributes—”

“No! Don’t do it!”

Despite the beginning of a background battle with Raphaela’s barrier, during this moment, Leeha’s thoughts were going in a different direction.

“Hyung?!”

“What are you saying at this point?”

Kijung, who was about to raise his shield and take the lead, hesitated. Leeha didn’t have time to explain. On the tree, an unidentified ranged attack was already being attempted!

“Everyone, don’t do anything! Absolutely do not counterattack! Focus on defense! Bailephus-nim, use Extra Barrier!”

The users had some confidence in facing an unknown enemy, and one of the reasons was the presence of the Ancient Gold Dragon Bailephus. However, Leeha blocked even Bailephus’s attempt to attack verbally. Moreover, Bailephus cast a wide-area defense magic at Leeha’s command. If it weren’t for Leeha’s intimacy with Bailephus, it would have been an unimaginable ‘order.’ Alexander frowned, trying to stop Leeha’s sudden action, but everyone’s attention was on the figure outside of Bailephus’s barrier.

“Wait, over there—”

Bobae’s shout pointed towards Shin Nara. Leeha rushed out without hesitation.

Flurr-!

The ranged attacks that came flying ignited in flames. The surroundings seemed brighter due to the fiery rain directed at Shin Nara.

“Come back right now, Ha Leeha.! What do you think you can do by going out like that?”

“Oppa!”

It was such a threatening attack. Kidd and Ram Hwajung shouted at Leeha, but he didn’t even look back.

‘If Ha Leeha dies now—’

‘It’s troublesome. He shouldn’t disappear yet.’

‘And what does it mean not to retaliate? What was he thinking?’

‘If he wants to die, he should at least say so!’

Other users had similar thoughts, though unspoken. Regardless of the strategic value, Ha Leeha’s impact on the New Continent Expedition was greater than that of the 6th-ranked Fencer Shin Nara. However, Leeha ignored all such considerations. Originally, he wasn’t the type to build relationships based on practical considerations. In his mind, only Shin Nara’s death existed, and his instincts were too powerful to consider it rationally.

‘Damn it! I hate things like fire and explosions! Is this going to paralyze my lower body?’

Even in the midst of being thrown away, such thoughts crossed his mind—a self-deprecating joke to release tension. Of course, there was a reason to turn his condition into a joke, as it was a thought that arose from a self-imposed standpoint.

This was Middle Earth, and Leeha had one corner of trust in this place.

“I hate—”

Leeha blocked her way.

“Of course, you should hate it! That’s how you should be, Shin Nara-ssi!”

“-Leeha-ssi.”

Then he embraced her.

“Please, Jellypong! And, 『Titanium Shield』!”

A thud, the sound seemed like it would never end.

As if it would tear Leeha’s back to shreds.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

And just like the first time they met, Leeha saved Shin Nara and made her fall for him again.
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 Ah.

Iniquity, Shin Nara felt the strong force with which Leeha embraced her. And even as the endless sounds continued, she couldn’t open her eyes within his arms. The moment she opened her eyes, she thought she would only see Leeha’s corpse turn gray. It was only then that she suddenly understood Leeha’s heart. How did he think about her? Did he develop an interest in other women? Chiyou tried to ignite the flames with a few words, but how could she have such foolish thoughts?

From the first time they met until now, Leeha had never changed once. He was someone who would risk his life for anyone in danger in front of him. Someone who would sacrifice himself to ensure that others didn’t suffer because of him. Wasn’t she also drawn to his kind and selfless heart? Shin Nara thought that Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and even Rubini might share the same feelings.

What could express this feeling? The emotions that had been held back until now unraveled smoothly. Beyond mere possessiveness or shallow love, true ‘understanding’ had found its place in Shin Nara’s heart.

“I’m… I’m sorry. I’m sorry, Leeha.”

There was nothing more to say. Love’s cruelty might be something much more extensive and intricate than words could express. Shin Nara could only apologize to Leeha.

Thump-thump, the sound of the final blow piercing Leeha’s back echoed, and the long series of impacts ceased. Now, all the attacks should be over.

Since she was still alive, there might be follow-up attacks. She was aware of that fact, yet Shin Nara still couldn’t bring herself to open her eyes.

The moment she opened her eyes felt like everything would come to an end. She gripped Leeha’s clothing tightly, pulling him closer. She didn’t want to miss even the ashen body of Leeha, driven by the desire not to let him go.

‘What should I say or how should I react when we meet again?’

 Fortunately, Shin Nara didn’t have to worry about that right now. Just say it ‘now.’

“Lee-”

“… Ouch. It hurts a lot. But why are you apologizing, Nara-ssi?”

Shin Nara was startled and opened her eyes wide. Even in the middle of the night, Leeha’s face shone with color. He was not ashen.

“Leeha, are you okay? How did…? Isn’t it painful? Did you take damage?”

“It hurts more than I thought. Imagine getting hit on the back with a giant acupuncture needle. It’s just that… even if they tell me to tank, I can’t. Well, this isn’t the time to talk about that.”

Leeha, who had been hugging Shin Nara, turned his body with a sound like a sweep and shouted toward the towering tree like a barrier, toward the “red goats” standing on it.

“Stop! We are not enemies! We have no intention of fighting you; we want to talk! Stop the attack!”

Leeha’s voice also roared through the darkness, forcefully cutting through it. The red goats indeed didn’t launch another attack. It wasn’t just because Leeha’s voice was loud. It was because he had boldly survived and proved himself amid their concentrated assault.

“We didn’t counterattack even after your surprise, preemptive attack! However, enduring it will only happen once!”


“We have this level of strength! We could have easily defended and launched attacks as well! However, we chose not to! Show us the same understanding! I’ll say it again! We want to talk! If you attack, we won’t hold back this time!”

Empowered, Leeha shouted even more forcefully. The red goats definitely showed no signs of further aggression. Shin Nara looked at Leeha’s back facing the red goats. Something seemed to slip smoothly under Drake’s coat, disappearing into his clothes.

“What is that…?”

It wasn’t just Shin Nara who questioned if she saw it correctly. All members of the New Continent Expedition Team witnessed the thin layer enveloping Leeha in the relentless rain of fire.

“What is that…? A conversation?”

“A defense skill… a powerful one, activated instantly without casting?”

“This is cheating. If even a dealer has such a skill…”

“One was definitely the Lord’s defense shield. The other one… hmm.”

Bailephus recognized the Platinum Shield and nodded. Other users could only speculate that there was something related to dragons after hearing the brief ‘hint’ from the gold dragon.

Of course, what Leeha used wasn’t just the power of the dragon. The effectiveness of Jellypong was not even accurately confirmed by Bailephus! It was as formidable as the Platinum Shield! However, in reality, Leeha had no more room for complacency.

The attacks of the red goats were stronger than they appeared.

‘Still, I can’t withstand it twice. They shouldn’t attack anymore… I barely managed to block it by mobilizing Bahamut’s skill and Jellypong’s defense. Fortunately, those attacks were ‘flame-type skills’, and I endured them.’

『Water Elemental Protection』

Description: The water elements never forget their savior.

Effect: Reduce damage from water-based attacks by 50%.

Restore 30% of health from damage caused by water-based attacks.

Reduce damage from fire-based attacks by 40%.

The buff from the Water Elemental Protection, one of the rewards from an S-rank achievement, played a significant role. The attacks that should have been more powerful due to the ‘Rain of Fire’ ended up being more weakened than expected.

“I don’t know how many there are, but their attack rhythm is incredible. It probably means there are a lot of them. Despite having this godly Platinum Shield, it still endured for 15 seconds… Even if I took damage once, it means the attacks of those who tried for more than 15 seconds hit me. If I had used Force Barrier, I might have died…”

Platinum Dragon’s defense skill boasted nearly invincible defensive capabilities. Even in an abnormal status, it was able to block the stab of the Sea God. However, its drawback lay in the duration. It only lasts for a mere 15 seconds, making it impractical for use throughout a normal battle—rather, it can only serve the purpose of blocking a single attack.


If, however, Leeha had used Force Barrier with a longer duration during the recent attack? Most likely, Leeha would have died. Leeha was well aware of how much damage he had taken. In the final moments, Jellypong was the one that saved him.

The Meta-Water Elemental, which ‘absorbs’ attacks, showcased the power of a legendary item.

『Legendary Meta-Water Elemental: ‘Jellypong’』

Total Health: 30,000

Current Health: 20,100 (67%)

Effects: Constitution +13, mind +13

Requirements: Achievement 『Resurrected Origin of the Sea』

Description: A water elemental containing the essence of the Sea God. While it governs water elementals, it is not one; it includes the essence of the Sea God born in the abode of the deity. It envelops the user’s body in the desired form, absorbing danger. However, one must always be aware that Jellypong is a living being.

‘An armor item that boosts health instead of defense. It was strange even when used as an offensive item, but it’s not to be underestimated as a defensive one either.’

And it has a total of 30,000 HP! According to Drake, Jellypong was a growth item. If the current 30,000 means it could potentially increase in the future, it implied that Leeha, with a total HP of around 6,000, had an extra life. Whether he used Force Barrier instead of Platinum Shield or even if he used Platinum Shield but didn’t have Jellypong, this was the reason why Leeha acknowledged his death. Jellypong, with a total health of 30,000, currently has only about 20,000 left.

After the disappearance of Platinum Shield, the incoming damage of 9,900 confirmed Leeha’s death, as he couldn’t survive that much damage.

‘Anyway, I survived. What’s left now.’ Leeha as well as the members of the new continent expedition team eagerly awaited the reaction of the red goats with a pounding heart, and he couldn’t act hastily at the moment.

There was an option to rush out, bring Leeha and Shin Nara, and use defensive skills, but they couldn’t move impulsively right now. Each action could be seen as a signal for an attack.

‘Good. Everyone is doing well. Don’t move hastily. They must be frightened right now.’

What Leeha contemplated was the clash of civilizations. NPC races using primitive methods, coupled with an unknown possession. While communication was possible, it was evident that dialogue wouldn’t work from the start. What’s the best way to convince them?

One way is to completely suppress them through a show of strength. Another is to demonstrate complete goodwill, showing that they didn’t come to fight.

‘Or show both at the same time.’

Leeha was still looking at the red goats with no clear response. The voice resonated when it happened, coming from the tree trunk-like structure.

“I’ll give it a try. Stay still and wait right there.”

With the voice, black silhouettes descended from the giant tree trunk.


“I saw something like this in a documentary where goats were walking on cliffs. No, was it goats or maybe sheep?”

“See, did you see it, raphaela-ssi? Did you see it? Master Kay was such a person! What’s so cool about this guy!”

After the awkward admiration that made even the listener uncomfortable, Bobae, perhaps out of rivalry(?), tried to check Master Kay. The tension of the New Continent Expedition members, who were quite nervous, eased a bit. The number of red goats descending from the tree was considerable. Including the humanoid Bailephus, there were about 42 in total. However, the red goats could surround them in two to three layers, showing a significant level of organization.

Were they here to observe?

It seemed like they were saying, “Let’s welcome those who attacked us first.”

Nara: Ha Leeha-ssi! What’s the plan? Just stay still like this?

Leeha: Right now, we can’t show any intention to attack. We have to wait.

Nara: But the current position is too disadvantageous. It will get even worse as time goes on. If those guys suddenly launch a surprise attack, we won’t even have time to cast anything!

It was natural that the users’ complaints reached Leeha. The anxiety was escalating.

Whispering to each person individually, Leeha eventually had to raise his voice through group whisper.

Leeha: Is everyone going to build a mana relay tower? If anyone wants to end the quest right now and attack, feel free to do so! Otherwise, follow my instructions for now!

Leeha’s shout had a clear effect. Everyone trusted his judgment, which had never been wrong so far. Of course, Leeha was also thinking about it. Thanks to the Platinum Shield and Jellypong, he realized one thing! If they fought, they would win.

This became even clearer as they were able to defend against the ambush. They were attacked, but their strength was preserved, and Bailephus had not yet revealed his true form. With the power of Bailephus and Alexander alone, they could easily deal with them.

But what comes next?

If the first move goes wrong and the battle begins, there will be no chance of restoring relations. Everyone knows this fact.

If they win this battle and build the relay tower, what’s next?

This is not their land. It’s their land. Through constant battles, if the intimacy becomes -100%, the relay tower will eventually be destroyed.

No, even before that, it might become impossible to build it at all.

(To be continued…)
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 Their number, distribution, and everything else in the new continent were all unknown.

‘Above all… it wasn’t just the red goats. At that time, they undoubtedly had an ‘enemy’.’

Even the unidentified force that Leeha had not confirmed and had to retreat from might be present again.

Leeha’s decision to temporarily suspend the battle was undoubtedly correct.

After thinking to that extent, the complaints from the users subsided.

The red goats were cautious. Only after securing the positions where the members of the New Continent Expedition couldn’t escape did one of them approach Leeha.

‘Bigger than I thought. I didn’t see it properly at that time and ran away…’

But Leeha knew their appearance before the transformation. Human-like but shorter with a monkey-like tail. However, now turned into red goats, their height was slightly larger than humans and smaller than giants. The characteristic straight, narrow eyes of goats met Leeha’s eyes.

‘What should I bring up first?’ Leeha first intended to reveal their identity and talk about the existence of another continent.

“I understand that you must have been surprised. However, we are—hmm?!”

But that attempt didn’t even get two words out. The red goat stopped for a moment at the mention of an attack, but that was it.

For a while, the red goat, which had been thudding, pulled away from Leeha’s face and neck, sniffing the air around.

“L-Leeha!”

“Stay still, stay still, Nara-ssi. It’s okay. They won’t attack.”

At the mention of an attack, the movements of the red goat paused for a moment, but that was it.

After thudding for a while, the red goat pulled away from Leeha’s body, distancing itself.

The red goat nodded its head.

“Perhaps you were able to endure our anger because of the love of the sea.”

“… What?”

“I remember this scent. The squid that boarded our ship last time.”


Leeha was surprised to hear the goat’s words but didn’t show it.

“Indeed… Well, at that time, you were sticking your nose right in front of my face. Did you confirm it by the smell?”

Detecting the invisibility magic of Bailephus through scent is not something that can be done with just instincts.

Leeha neither confirmed nor denied that he was the ‘squid’ from that time.

“I express my admiration for your amazing ability, o Squid who crossed the sea.”

“Thank you. Uh, but I’m not a squid—”

“Stop! Expressing admiration doesn’t mean having a conversation. Squid.”

Whether Leeha agreed or disagreed, the red goat continued to call him a squid. Leeha felt slightly uneasy for some reason.

“… Understood. If you have any questions, please ask. I will answer.”

He had to show his sincerity first. The easiest way to gain trust is to show trust first. 

‘Opening the door is the hardest. But once you step inside, it’s easy. We’re almost there.’

Even though they weren’t yet conversation partners, Leeha was satisfied just by coming this far. However, whether the red goats were satisfied or not, he would have to think a bit more.

“There are many eyes here. All hide. I will take you to the village.”

“Red Goat!”

“Huh?! And what’s with the eyes—”

The goat that was talking to Leeha, perhaps the highest-ranking one, turned away from Leeha and gave orders to the other goats.

Even in that situation, what Leeha first thought about was the reaction of the members of the New Continent Expedition.

Leeha: But still, you must not attack! Did you hear what I said to this goat? If anyone swings a weapon, we’ll be in deep trouble!

“… Chet.”

Luger was about to lift the Cobalt Blue Python just a second before. It was close.


“Are you calling this a conversation? I knew it from the moment you started clumsily scheming.”

“I’ll commend your courage to save Shin Nara. But your conclusion is still amateurish.”

“Kikik, why bother talking? Anyway, you better understand.”

Luger, Kidd, and Biyemi gathered around, sitting closely, observing Leeha’s predicament. The space was spacious enough to accommodate 42 individuals in one place, and it was chilly. They were confined in the red goats’ fortress-like prison.

“Please control your attacks; it’s too much. At least you followed my words and came here once. You saw it on the way here, right? The structure of this village, with these enormous trees connected by stairs, houses… It seems to weave together the surface and the sky.”

“Sigh… Maybe it would have been better not to come at all, Leeha-ssi. The entire prison is sealed, so teleportation doesn’t work anymore.”

“Well, it’s true, but…”

Leeha was about to retort, but upon hearing Hyein’s sigh-infused complaint, he had nothing more to say.

“The spatial blockade is quite strong, but it’s not unbreakable.”

“The walls are the same. If you try to break them, you can break them, but that’s probably not what you want, Ha Leeha.”

“Yes. Both of you, please bear with it a bit.”

Even the combination of Bailephus and Alexander had some complaints. After a series of events on the beach, they were dragged into the forest of giant trees like a barrier and ended up imprisoned.

No user who longed for the New Continent landing would have expected such a situation.

“Logout might be a problem too. If the people they brought in disappear all at once, wouldn’t that be troublesome?”

“… A good point, chiyouu-nim.”

“Of course. I’m always thinking about the best for the New Continent Expedition.”

Chiyou responded to Leeha with a playful smile. It was a cooperative attitude, but Leeha didn’t like it, not even that aspect.

Leeha was frustrated that there was no call from the red goats to have a conversation, but it was fortunate for Shin Nara. Because she finally found the courage to talk to Leeha.

“Hey, Leeha-ssi…”

“Yes, Nara-ssi.”


“Earlier… um…” But upon hearing Leeha’s voice, her will disappeared again. While Shin Nara wanted to say something, looking at the enthusiastic Leeha, it was not as easy as he thought.

Above all, the situation where the gaze of the 40 individuals, excluding Leeha and Nara, was focused solely on her was quite subtle. The fact that Leeha broke through the red goats’ attack and protected her was witnessed by everyone present, so it was easy to guess what they were all thinking.

“At least I didn’t say anything cringy! Otherwise, I would have had a hard time holding my head up.”

The mumbling Shin Nara and the firm Leeha seemed to match somehow. Before Shin Nara could speak, Leeha spoke first.

“Hey! You don’t have to apologize or say thanks.”

“Huh?”

“Such talks can be done next time when we meet outside. Right?”

The intention was to turn the conversation as if to leave this place. Although Leeha’s purpose was to avoid this situation, his judgment was not wrong.

“Well, should we? Next time outside? Meet like last time?”

“Uh, yes. Like last time.”

“… Sure. Okay! Then, let’s talk again next time.”

Rather, it made Shin Nara understand that they would talk while dating.

Users watching from a distance simultaneously shook their heads.

“Kiskis, it’s hard to tell if it’s going well or not at times like this.

“But still, it’s improved a lot. Eong-ah has a subtle temperament.”

“Oh, sigh… No improvement at all. I can’t sleep for a few days again.”

Biyemi, Kijung, and Bobae whispered among themselves, chatting like a group of ladies watching a drama. However, everyone was not watching the scene with contentment or joy. Ram Hwajung’s small fist was clenched tightly and trembling.

“… I don’t like it.”

The sound of her whisper was heard only by Rubini, who was right next to her.

“Yes, Ram Hwajung-ssi?”

Ram Hwajung, who had just opened her mouth, stood up from her seat and walked toward Leeha.

“Ag! Ram Hwajung-ssi. I’m so relieved that you didn’t use magic earlier – huh?”

Thud! Then she struck Leeha’s thigh with her fist. It was a completely unexpected attack.

“What are you saying?”

Even if Jellypong didn’t absorb the damage, hP wouldn’t have looked the same. Instead, Leeha couldn’t understand at all what Ram Hwajung was talking about.

Only Rubini vaguely guessed the relationship between Shin Nara, Ram Hwajung, and Leeha by watching that scene.

‘I didn’t notice before… but if it were Leeha-nim, something like that would happen.’

Although her guess was slightly off, when the sudden action of Ram Hwajung happened, the users were bewildered. It was Jin Gonggong who changed the flow of conversation.

“But why did they bother bringing us here?”

“What do you mean?”

“It’s what the red goats said. Sure, this is a pretty sturdy prison, but it’s not like they’re going to lock us up permanently, right? Moreover, during the transportation, they didn’t cover our eyes or anything. In a way, they revealed all of their main base.”

“Well, that makes sense.”

When Jin Gonggong spoke, Pei Wu responded promptly.

“As for me, due to animal affinity, I’ve explored the homes of various animals in Middle Earth. Roughly speaking, animals don’t want to reveal their homes to others…”

Leeha could also use Jin Gonggong’s words as a hint. Suddenly, the words uttered by the red goats on the beach came to mind. Someone or something that prevented conversation in that place, or had the ability to do so? There was only one possible target.

“They had enemies back then. They must be launching an attack again, as the incident at that time was not an ordinary one. But where? Did they hide somewhere in the darkness? Aside from those trees, there wouldn’t be many hiding places.”

Leeha couldn’t completely solve his own questions. However, now was the time to solve them.

Kiiik… The sound of the iron door opening echoed. The external door opened, and the footsteps echoed – thud, thud, thud. Shortly after, what stood in front of the iron bars were the transformed red goats. Instead of tops, they wore geometric body paintings, revealing the lower part as if daringly covered, and identical faces with red goat tattoos. They looked like primitive beings from a foreign land, but what was different was the monkey tail protruding from their buttocks, swaying. Jin Gonggong was looking at the NPCs with keen interest. One of the red goats, who had become human, shouted.

“Red goats! Bring out your leader!”

Leeha and Alexander looked at each other simultaneously. Who should go out? At this moment, although other expedition members didn’t speak, their intentions were aligned.

“We need a representative.”

When Pei Wu nodded and suggested, Leeha could understand who should go out. He stood up without hesitation.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Red goats!

Most of the paleos shout their race before each sentence and even when acknowledging orders. So we will be seeing red goats a lot.

And yes, although they are stronger than the red goats, using strength is not always the solution to a problem, sometimes diplomacy is needed.
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 “That’s the ‘squid’ they’re talking about.”

“You mean the one eldest hyung Youngblood brought?”

“It stayed hidden in the sea, making its body invisible!”

Leeha surveyed the surroundings while looking at the NPCs who had come to the prison. The village in the middle of the forest, made up of massive trees that looked like barriers, was in a strange balance with the trees.

The village was constructed using 100-meter-tall trees that rose high enough to block out moonlight and starlight, creating a harmonious composition. Both on the ground and in the air, the small houses seemed like ant nests, using the forest as their territory.

But that wasn’t all. Even among the prisoners being dragged out, there were NPC children who glanced at Leeha. All of this, revealed by the appearance of the red goats, made Leeha feel something strange.

Despite launching a surprise attack and growling as if ready to face enemies, there was something inexplicably messy or, perhaps, friendly about them.

“Anyway, it’s good news. Maybe showing respect meant something like this.”

It was unlikely that a perfect disposal had already taken place. Leeha knew that they wouldn’t fully accept the members of the New Continent Expedition. However, there was still an opportunity for conversation, a chance to persuade. That was something Leeha found comforting.

“It’s huge…!”

“Red goats! Shut your mouth! This is the dwelling place of the Guardian Deity! It’s not a place for the likes of squid to open its mouth!”

“Yes, app!”

Observing the NPCs reacting intensely to a single exclamation, Leeha felt like bursting into laughter. The roaring momentum was fearsome, but, as expected, it was also somewhat sloppy!

‘The Guardian Deity? They just gave me a hint—probably the place where the tribe leader is. Great, it’ll be easier to talk to someone important from the beginning.’

Leeha had vaguely heard about the leader of the tribe from the little ones on the way. The name of the red goat who remembered Leeha’s scent was Youngblood, and he was probably holding a significant position, perhaps a title like ‘eldest hyung.’ If they weren’t all siblings, then they were likely a family.

The exact size of the tribe couldn’t be determined, but it certainly wasn’t likely to exceed 500 members. In a place like this, resembling a primitive tribe, being referred to as ‘eldest hyung’ wasn’t a low-ranking position.

“Maybe that person is the tribe leader.”

Leeha ascended the stairs, which were embedded in a giant tree trunk, and spiraled around it. Even though they could have installed sharp-hooved stairs for someone in the form of a goat, they chose to build stairs for human-shaped beings. Was it for the convenience of those in goat form or a deliberate effort to maintain a mysterious atmosphere? Leeha couldn’t help feeling more curiosity and wonder than anxiety. It was a kind of trained courage.

Crossing the Dawn Sea and witnessing the vast world known as the ‘Dragon Palace’, Leeha considered that whatever awaited them here wouldn’t be as terrifying.

Only now, the red goat NPC covered Leeha’s eyes with a blindfold and led the way to the door.


“Red goat! We’ve brought the leader of the squids, the giant squid!”

The door automatically opened. What Leeha felt was a sigh, the echoing wind, and the sound of footsteps.

Thump, thump, thump. Leeha could now clearly sense the considerable size inside.

“Good job. Have a seat there.”

“Red Goat!”

Even while being forced into a seat, Leeha couldn’t help but think, ‘Did they really have to say it like that instead of just “Yes”?’ Nevertheless, that was the extent of Leeha’s leisure. As the blindfold was finally removed, what appeared before Leeha’s eyes was a presence that could dispel the playful atmosphere from earlier in an instant.

“Wow, wow-”

“Red Goat! Can’t you be quiet?”

Despite being forcibly seated, Leeha couldn’t focus on that. Instead, Leeha was captivated by the huge eyes staring at him.

The overall form was certainly that of a goat. It was exceptionally large, and features like the long, round-tipped horns on its head and the beard under its jaw resembled those of a goat. However, the eyes staring at Leeha weren’t on its face.

“What kind of eyes are… attached to its back?! And it’s huge enough to cover the entire back!”

The goat’s peculiar rectangular eyes, characteristic of goats, were situated on its back, making Leeha feel perplexed. Not to mention the tail?

Compared to the white fur covering its faceless body, the goat’s tail was red. However, it wasn’t a normal tail; it had nine of them, making it far from looking normal.

“Tribe Guardian Deity…?! No, it’s more like this—”

In the dwelling of the Tribe Guardian Deity, there indeed lived a guardian deity, but Leeha wanted to classify it more as a monster than a guardian deity.

“I’ve heard the story and was curious. You’re truly a ‘human.’ Well, you couldn’t have been a squid.”

The goat’s mouth opened. Leeha was already accustomed to such surprises, having adapted well to Middle Earth. However, when the goat’s mouth opened, it wasn’t clear whether Leeha should look at the goat’s mouth on its face or the eyes on its back.

Inside, it was even more spacious than it appeared from the outside. There were no household items, and the ceiling was bare.

Apart from the goat’s strange appearance, sitting with its front legs bent, its odd but slightly scary eyes, and the nine tails that were clearly not normal, the interior resembled a hall, except for the goat sitting in the center.

“I-I am honored to meet you for the first time. I am Ha Leeha, coming from across the sea.”


As Leeha offered a polite greeting, the eyes on the goat’s back, which were separate from its face, curved like a crescent moon. Faced with the creature’s distinctive appearance, Leeha’s spine couldn’t help but shiver.

“I know where you’re from. I heard the whispers of the demons who fled here from there. I also learned about another land beyond that sea for the first time during that chaos. There are creatures there, called ‘humans’, much like the ‘Paleos’ here, but slightly taller and without tails.”

The goat’s voice was quite lively, not as solemn as one might expect from a Tribe Guardian Deity. In fact, it seemed less dignified. The Paleos NPCs scattered around Leeha and the goat listened attentively with solemn expressions.

‘Paleos, huh? But what about the demons? Could it be Bluebeard?’

Leeha pondered over the goat’s words. Although there wasn’t much to respond to, the goat, as if suddenly remembering, laughed and opened its mouth again.

“Right, I forgot to introduce myself. My name is Aibex. I’ve been living here, protecting the ‘Red Wood’ since the moment when God and Devil clashed. The Red Wood and paleos are like my home and family.”

“Red goat! Your words are honorable, Guardian Deity!”

“Haha! Being called a Guardian Deity is all thanks to my abilities. Whether God played a prank or the Devil played a trick, I have the ability to prevent all fires. The fact that Red Wood has survived without burning until now is all thanks to my power.”

Aibex, the goat who introduced itself, simply responded to the praises of the Paleos with an amused smile. However, Leeha couldn’t easily brush it off. If what Aibex was saying was true, it meant that it had been living since the moment when God and the Devil were separated!

‘Age surpassing that of Ancient Dragons! It might not be Ancient-class but maybe close, something like Platinum Dragon Bahamut.’

It seemed neutral, like a creature that had lived for a long time in a manner similar to spirits. Leeha simply nodded, listening to Aibex’s words.

“So, why did you cross that sea? Tell me. Why did the person who made Youngblood say ‘there is a great squid’ come here?”

“Um… You’ve mentioned seeing the appearance of those demons fleeing to this place. The humans from that continent, us, have had two conflicts with the Demon King’s Fragment.”

Leeha cautiously opened his mouth, looking at Aibex’s eyes. If the goat and these beings called Paleos were on the same side as the demons would result in immediate death. But it wasn’t yet clear with 100% certainty.

“Um, yes, that’s right. So? Did you cross the sea just to exterminate the remnants?”

Aibex’s ‘back’ shook. Leeha could tell it was a gesture typical of a creature making a light-hearted joke.

“No, we didn’t come here to exterminate their remnants. We came chasing someone, to prevent the third conflict.”

“Is there someone worthy of that? Le, Pyrot Cocri, and Ghibrid are probably still asleep. The last time they were awakened, energetic Paleos were about to rush out. They’re annoying little fellows, but they were stopped just in time. They must still be in a weakened state, but if they were provoked again, it would be troublesome.”

Leeha felt somewhat embarrassed by how casually the creature treated the Demon King’s Fragments as if they were old friends in the neighborhood. Nevertheless, it gave Leeha confidence. It seemed unlikely that this beast(?) boasting and gossiping like this would be on the side of the demons.

But Leeha couldn’t easily ignore the information Aibex was sharing.


“No, Bluebeard, le, has awakened. And he came from the continent across the sea to this place. We are here chasing after him.”

“What!?”

“Red goat! You scoundrel! What nonsense are you talking about to the Guardian Deity!”

As Aibex was startled, the paleos standing behind Leeha immediately thrust their spears forward. In the moment when the swift attack was about to be blocked by a gelatinous barrier, aibex shouted first.

“Stop! Halt, my children. I was just a little surprised. Don’t act hastily.”

“Red goat!”

Leeha felt a bit bewildered as he watched the Paleos step back.

‘A being… is it appropriate to call it a spirit? In any case, it seems to be a Guardian Deity that has endured tremendous ages, ruling itself as a concept akin to a tribe chief.’

The feeling of inadequacy couldn’t be easily erased. While Leehawas contemplating Aibex, the eyes on the giant goat’s back remained closed.

“So Le came here after awakening…? Well, well, if that’s the case, it makes sense. Le is the one who contaminates and corrupts beasts, after all.”

“Yes, that’s correct. Le left our continent, corrupted the water spirits in the underwater palace deep in the sea, and came here. If we don’t find him soon, it could pose a threat to Aibex-nim and the Paleos as well.”

Leeha cautiously interjected, breaking into Aibex’s soliloquy. The goat didn’t particularly react to this information. Should he provide more ‘keywords’? Leeha pondered this while facing Aibex.

“However, finding and dealing with Le is beyond our capabilities alone. Therefore… I would like to propose to Aibex-nim. If we are given a location to build a mana relay tower that can connect our continent and here, and if the safety of that tower is guaranteed!”

A gulp.

“Summoning the humans from across the sea to this place, we could eliminate all the Demon King’s Fragments before awakening Ghibrid and Pyrot Cocri. I speak of this before Bluebeard awakens them.”

Leeha spoke with strength in his voice.

(To be continued…)
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 The joy of arriving on the New Continent had been momentarily set aside, and despite facing an overwhelming preemptive attack, they did not retaliate. Without a mana relay tower, the New Continent ‘Erika’ could only be traveled to and fro in about 120 days. Without proper supplies and manpower, they couldn’t engage in a prolonged battle against the Demon King’s Fragments.

However, even after hearing Leeha’s pivotal statement, aibex showed no significant reaction. It seemed he wasn’t on the same side as the Demon King’s Fragment, but the eyes on Aibex’s back remained closed.

As an NPC classified as dragon-class, what judgment would this creature make? How was it set up?

The die had already been cast. All Leeha could do was wait.

“I see… So, that’s how it is.”

After a moment, aibex’s eyes gently opened. The eyeless goat’s face nodded slowly. However, aibex wasn’t looking at Leeha. Despite the straight-line eyes of the goat head, Leeha could sense some unease from Aibex, even though the goat eyes indicated agreement.

“Now, the clues are finally coming together. Foolish… Foolish-”

“Red goat! Guardian Deity-nim! The black cranes are coming! More than a hundred!”

The shout from outside Aibex’s dwelling reached them at that moment.

Aibex’s eyes instantly widened, almost covering the entire back. Although the internal Paleos were momentarily bewildered, aibex did have a certain aspect fitting of a “Guardian of the Tribe.”

“My children, no need to be surprised! Call your eldest hyung and follow me!”

“Red goat!”

Aibex stood up and shouted! And the paleos inside and outside responded at the same time.

The sudden change in the atmosphere made Leeha momentarily assess the situation, but Aibex didn’t afford him the luxury.

“Human, you said you are ‘Ha Leeha’, right?”

“Yes, yes, that’s right.”

“We’ll talk about that topic later. Anyway, it seems that the recent conversation and those foolish black crane fellows are somehow related.”

“What?”

“Follow me.”

Aibex stood up and began leaping onto the “Red Wood” with a paat-paat sound! It was as if he was effortlessly jumping on a tree trunk with the slightest curvature.


Each time he lifted a foot, nine red tails fluttered like a fan. The enormous size was incongruent with the speed, reminiscent of Pei Wu.

“What is that, and how am I supposed to say that black crane… whatever it is? Anyway, did the persuasion work?”

Leeha looked puzzled, gazing at the goat leaping onto the tree. Anyway, if they came, they’ll have to deal with it.

Leeha diligently followed Aibex, stepping on the stairs surrounding the tree.

“Red goat! Defend! Show those crazy black crane fellows a lesson!”

“Red goat!”

Swooosh! Swoooosh! Even while climbing the stairs, flashes of red light appeared here and there.

The transformed Paleos, now red goats, leaped towards the top of the tree trunk, stepping on the pillars without hesitation. The speed at which they ascended was impossible to catch by merely climbing stairs.

“Jellypong! Can you extend your hand, or rather your face, and grab onto something to prevent me from falling?”

Before Leeha finished speaking, the hand—or rather the face—of Jellypong, the gelatinous water spirit, protruded from his vest. Leeha chuckled at the sight of the smiling metawater spirit.

“Okay, let’s go. Help me ride the tree!”

Paat! Leeha trusted and jumped as if riding a wooden monkey. As if the arm of a tree-climbing monkey reached out, Jellypong’s arm extended from Leeha’s chest.

Already standing at the top of one Red Wood, aibex awaited Leeha’s ascent from below.

“Indeed. It seems you received the love of the sea. Is it that creature that separated from the sea god, mermaid, as they say?”

“Yes? Uh, well… something like that”, Leeha replied, bewildered.

Though it was said to have been born where the sea god resided, aibex casually mentioned it, like talking about a rare animal from a neighboring country. 

‘Is he joking because he hadn’t encountered it, or because he is confident? He knows about humans but he doesn’t know about dragons!’’

Leeha imagined the meeting between Bailephus and Aibex. 

‘Now that I think about it, Bailephus is an expert at mana detection. Didn’t he know that a being like Aibex is here?’

So far there were only two beings that were able to escape the gold dragon’s mana detection. The ancient dragon Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh and Bluebeard Le.


Did this mean that Aibex is above that level? There was no time to dwell on it. Below, the transformed paleos were taking their places one after another.

 While the ibex moved on all fours like a ‘real goat’, the paleo’s transformation resembled a human form.

“Follow.”

“Yes, yes, understood.”

Now, with more questions than answers, Leeha continued to climb the stairs, leaving the transformed paleos behind.

“Prepare for a coordinated attack!”

“Red goat!”

Beside Aibex, Leeha could recognize the commanding goat with a thunderous roar.

‘Eldest Hyung’ Youngblood. He was issuing commands to other goats around him, directing their positions, and organizing a defensive formation.

But it wasn’t an ordinary defense.

“He’s not here for no reason. Defending against enemies from above in this place is not suitable. The visibility is too obstructed.”

Originally, the identity of the enemy had not been clear from the beginning. Black crane. Perhaps, as the name “black crane” suggested, the enemy would fly.

“Hudid creates fire.”

“What?”

“And I prevent fire. The reason the Red Wood Forest could grow for over five thousand years was the harmony between his power and mine. Burn what needs to be burned and protect what needs to be protected.”

Aibex spoke at that moment.

‘Did he just compare himself to someone else? Hudid… If that’s the case—’

No, before that, Leeha needed to confirm one thing. Some thoughts crossed his mind, but they were too absurd.

“I’m sorry, but—about this black crane—”

“They are paleos. Following Hudid, Hudid’s children. Just like red goats are my children.”


“Could it be that… on your side as well—”

Paleos? The red goats releasing puffs of air beside Leeha were also called ‘paleos.’ But if they were paleos too, Leeha carefully selected his words and glanced at Aibex’s back.

“Transformation… is that the right term? Enhancement? Possession? In any case, can you do something like that?”

“Huh, can’t humans inherit their parents’ abilities? Well, when Youngblood brought you here, you didn’t show such habits. It seems it wasn’t that you couldn’t, but that you didn’t.”

Aibex’s response was affirmative, adding to Leeha’s confusion.

‘Inheriting abilities…? Indeed, it means possession, enhancement, transformation, or something like that! And if that—shouting among themselves like they did means what I think it means—’

The black crane was likely to transform into some aerial form. Looking at the definition of the word, perhaps a crane!

“Then, is ‘Hudid’ similar to Aibex-nim, perhaps—”

“They’re coming.”

Aibex nodded, cutting off Leeha’s words. Further explanation from Aibex was unnecessary.

“Toward the sun’s direction during lunch! Throw!”

“Red goat!”

With Youngblood’s powerful command, the red goats grabbed weapons and threw them. Thin, thrown spears burst into flames as they soared through the air.

In the foremost point of the targeted area, a giant black crane was flying. Aibex, also of an extraordinary size, was dwarfed by what was approaching.

The creature had a scarlet-patterned body and a head that shone with a blueish light, resembling a goblin flame. Even without additional explanations, Leeha could understand that this creature named “Hudid” was the one Aibex mentioned.

Considering its spread wings, Hudid was gigantic, possibly comparable to the Gold Dragon Bailephus. Behind it, hundreds of small black cranes, resembling Youngblood in human form, were also flying.

The surrounding paleos—Red Goats—were goat-shaped, but the approaching paleos—black cranes—were human-shaped cranes, each with a pair of human arms.

‘In other words, red goats with two legs, wielding weapons in their arms… and human-shaped black cranes with wings on their backs, fighting with weapons in both hands?!’

Even for Leeha, who had been to the Dragon Palace, this scene was bizarre, to say the least. It might be more appropriate to call it a monstrous battle.

『Bright Flame』.”

Hudid extended a wing-like forelimb toward the direction the thrown weapons were coming from and casually shouted.

For a moment, it seemed like a flash of light from its blue head! However, one of the weapons thrown by the red goats burned even more intensely.

‘Increased the fire?!’

But the brilliance was short-lived. As one of the thrown weapons ignited into an enormous flame, the other fires in the vicinity were all extinguished, creating a surreal scene.

『Gwangyeom』.”

Hudid lightly exclaimed as it withdrew its extended limb.

From its blue head, a flash of light! At that moment, the burning weapon among those thrown by the red goats intensified even more.

‘Added more fire?’

However, the brilliance was brief. As one of the thrown weapons generated an enormous flame, all the surrounding fires were extinguished.

“Oh? What’s this? Did all the fires—”

“He creates fire. It’s a powerful fire that temporarily sucks in all the surrounding oxygen.”

Fire doesn’t burn without a continuous supply of oxygen. If powerful firepower was concentrated temporarily to absorb all the surrounding oxygen? The small fires around are all extinguished, leaving only one large fire.

“Oh? What’s this? Did all the fires—”

“Keep throwing!”

“Red goat!”

The red goats continued to throw their weapons, but the black cranes nullified the attacks with graceful maneuvers and evasive aerial movements. The speed of the thrown spears was fast, but air defense battles inherently favored the defensive side.

‘Without a concept like anti-aircraft artillery… It’s nearly impossible to block attacks with just thrown weapons.’

The black cranes, almost invisible in the pitch-black night sky, could only be discerned by the faint moonlight and the fiery glow from the thrown spears. The flaming spears continued to fly, enhancing the flames with each throw, and the surrounding fires were extinguished in the ongoing attrition.

“Burn it all down.”

“Black crane! Prepare for the bombing run! Explosive assault!”

“Black crane!”

Even the black cranes, not immune to continuous attacks solely based on ‘direct hits’ without explosions or collateral effects, were now creating a single large formation. It was evident to Leeha amidst the chaotic flight.

Amidst the busy throwing of spears, the red goats started to waver.

“Prepare for ground defense! Guardian Deity-nim!”

“Don’t worry. What would happen if the one in charge gets nervous?”

“Sorry, red goat!”

Youngblood, by Aibex’s side, bowed his head.

It was at that moment that Aibex, Youngblood, and Leeha, who were in the circular sky, and the approaching Hudid and black cranes, seized their opportunity.

“Assault.”

“Assault! Explosive assault!”

“Black crane!”

Finally, Leeha could accurately observe the black cranes’ movements. Like a kingfisher catching fish, all the black cranes descended vertically, and flames ignited on their bodies. True to the name ‘explosive assault’, they were burning themselves while descending in a trembling manner.

“Wow?! What is that—”

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 451

				
 The black cranes were larger than the red goats. Each one, giant-sized, numbered over a hundred. It meant that more than a hundred living flame bombs were falling from the sky!

“Wood! Everything below is wood – if it catches fire!”

“Huuu—–did! You stupid idiot!”

Leeha’s ears rang as he looked around in confusion. Next to him was Aibex shouting with all his might.

“You fool! You look like a black crane with its head twisted——–! 『Suppress』!”

Light flashed from Aibex’s horns. The fire of the black cranes, descending rapidly, went out all at once.

“Go, my children! Flame Burst!”

“Red goat!”

And Aibex once again used his power towards the red goats. When their bright red fur sparkled as if coated with wax, the red goats broke the branches of the Redwood and soared into the sky.

Each of them, with their horns thrust forward, would directly receive the tremendous kinetic energy of the descending paleos.

“Gwaaaah!”

The charge began. Kwaaaah——— Kwaaaah——! Red goats and black cranes entangled mid-air, starting a fierce battle. The red goats couldn’t fly in the sky. In other words, they were fighting on the ground as they fell! A red goat trying to tear off the wings of a black crane, a black crane trying to entwine the head of the red goat with its horns to avoid them.

‘Crazy….’

This was not a level of combat where they exchanged punches. They were a new race of NPCs who used their bodies as weapons. Even in the midst of breaking the branches of the Redwood and falling, they showed determination.

“Hudid. This stubborn friend…”

According to Aibex’s words, paleos could borrow the power of a being like a ‘guardian deity.’ Leeha hadn’t fully grasped the concept yet, but he felt that he was something close to his children. Why would he send his children into a deadly charge? Hudid, soaring proudly in the night sky, and Aibex, sadly looking at Hudid. Leeha cautiously opened her mouth, recalling what Aibex had said.

“Are you two… originally close?”

“… Didn’t I say? He makes fire, and I extinguish it. Over the more than five thousand years this forest has been growing, we had a special relationship.”

Indeed.

Leeha nodded. He vaguely seemed to know the whole story of the incident.


“Hudid-nim changed like that not long ago, right?”

“Aibex probably—probably…”

“You think that Le made Hudid-nim like that.”

“Someone like Le couldn’t have made Hudid like that. It’s impossible.”

Aibex shook his head.

The place where Leeha and Aibex stood was at the top of a tall Redwood. From various places on the ground, the sounds of fierce battles were still audible. Here and there, black cranes, breaking through walls of leaves and branches, were soaring back into the sky. In the midst of such noise, Leeha looked at Aibex shaking his head.

“No. Absolutely not. I mentioned earlier that Le contaminated the water spirits and came here, but that’s not all. Not only ordinary water spirits but even the ruler of the sea who governs the vast ocean, the Sea God, was somewhat affected by Bluebeard’s influence.”

“Is that so…?”

The eyes on Aibex’s back squinted.

“Yes. The sea god endured it. If he had completely fallen, the Dragon Palace would have been completely destroyed, but the sea god endured. However, Hudid-nim is clearly different, and his purpose is also clear. It’s more serious than the case of the sea god.”

The sea god attacked indiscriminately, both mermaids and mermen. He was only swayed by something like symptoms of insanity just before completely losing his mind.

“But Hudid is different. He’s not blind. Literally… he’s corrupted.”

Leeha stared intently into Aibex’s eyes. Now he seemed to understand a little about the concept of the ‘tribe guardian god.’

Having lived for a long time, he was based on a specific ‘ordinary creature.’ Despite gaining tremendous power and special abilities, he lacked the wisdom of dragons or gods.

“Aibex-nim, you also think that way, don’t you? The expression when you heard my story about Le crossing to the Erika continent was clearly—”

“No! No way. That’s not true. Hudid and I were the strongest guardians in this Redwood! We even kept the demons that ran away from the old continent in check!”

He might be thinking that way himself, but the stubbornness or pride prevented him from saying it out loud.

Leeha didn’t back down. Then, with the realization that if there was a hole, this was the only thing, he made an irresistible proposal.

“Leave it to me. I will handle it.”

“… Can a human do it? Something that’s not even clear in its reasons!?”


“I’m the one who resolved the contamination and corruption of the sea god.”

The eyes on Aibex’s back widened again. Just before he could say more, Leeha spoke first.

“But… promise me the site for building the mana relay tower and ensure its safety.”

Shwaaaa—– A notification window appeared in front of Leeha a few seconds later. The battle was still in full swing.

『Come to your senses, my friend.』

Explanation: “Can you really do that? Can you do that without killing him? In this vast continent, the only one I relied on for such a long time is Hudid. We are each other’s enemies and friends. Born to kill each other but beings that must coexist. Among the numerous creatures spread across Erika, we are the only ones who truly understand each other. If you can reverse that insane guy… I would rather ask you for a favor. Just to confirm the abilities of humans and gods.”

Aibex, the one who extinguishes fires, wants to heal Hudid, the one who starts fires. Investigate the reason why the spirit Hudid has fallen, resolve the cause, and restore peace to Erika’s ‘Redwood.’

Content: Healing the corrupted spirit of the creature Hudid

Reward: Designation of mana relay tower construction site and safety assurance

Increased intimacy with Aibex and his Paleos +100%

Increased intimacy with Hudid and his Paleos +100%

Condition for Failure: Hudid’s death

In case of failure: Achievement – “Are Humans Born to Betray”

Decreased intimacy with Aibex and his Paleos -100%

Decreased intimacy with Hudid and his Paleos -100%

Will you accept?

“Insane… insane, this is unbelievable. What is this?”

Leeha was already convinced. If Hudid, that giant black crane, was contaminated by Bluebeard, then the treatment method was simple as well. Just remove the source of contamination!

Moreover, since this type of quest came up, the method Leeha guessed was practically confirmed. However, what surprised Leeha wasn’t the request to heal Hudid without killing him. Was it because the reward was really just that? Or because the failure condition was too simple? No, that wasn’t it.

The reason Leeha was surprised was solely one thing—the words Aibex casually threw out in the quest description window.


‘On the Erika continent… 『numerous creatures spread』…?’

Like Aibex and Hudid, beings that evolved differently while based on the form of a beast. Aibex himself referred to them as creatures. If the story that came out of his mouth was true, this meant it was a setting in Middle Earth.

‘Creatures of that level are spread widely?! And the NPC race called paleo, uses the power of a tribe guardian god! And if the tribe guardian god means creatures, then… in the Erika continent, it would mean not being surprised by something like red goats or black cranes, creatures that are ‘something between humans and monsters’! Because there would be much more diverse life forms!’

Leeha’s expression momentarily showed surprise, and the eyelids on Aibex’s back narrowed.

“Aren’t you confident? If not—”

“No! No, no. I’m confident. But…! I can’t do it alone. Please release my colleagues below.”

『Negotiation skill has been activated.』 『The probability of convincing the opponent increases by 57%.』

Leeha skillfully initiated negotiations. 『Expert Negotiator Lv.5』 The convincing probability surpasses ‘half and half’! This quest is different from the compelling quests before. It’s not a mandatory quest, and the conditions are not too tight. If there’s room for negotiation, it should be used, of course.

However, maybe Aibex didn’t like Leeha’s attitude. Helping while placing conditions might have been impolite in Erika continent customs. Aibex’s expression wasn’t particularly bright.

“I still can’t trust you completely. Why should I?”

“I know the cause and the solution.”

Leeha didn’t avoid the eyes on Aibex’s back. The eyes on the back and the mouth on the face made a faint ‘hmm’ sound, creating a bit of distance and making Leeha slightly uncomfortable. Nevertheless, Leeha remained determined.

Shwooosh! After a while, the quest notification window finally changed.

Content: Heal the corrupted spirit of the creature Hudid with one human companion.

“… Okay. Then release only one person.”

“One person?! At least two should be released!”

“One person. If you don’t like it, you can just stop—”

『Failed in persuasion.』

“Ah, okay! I got it. One person! Let’s do it with one person.”

Just before the notification window disappeared, Leeha clicked the accept button. The mention of a 50-50 persuasion success rate meant that one of the attempts could fail, and Leeha was well aware of that.

Although the complete goal wasn’t achieved, Leeha felt somewhat relieved with at least some progress.

‘There are no specific regulations on the method. Just need to restore the contaminated spirit.’

In extreme terms, it meant suppressing and tying up Hudid, then fixing the ‘mental education’ and ‘batting’—in other words, what if it came to the worst-case scenario?

‘Bring out Bailephus, then subdue and educate Hudid to the point of not killing him. Simple but effective.’

Perhaps the Ancient Gold Dragon might know another skill to cure the contamination by Bluebeard. Leeha’s thought of bringing out at least ‘one person’ was not wrong. At least, up to this point.

“… I’m going back today.”

“Black crane! Withdraw! Withdraw!” —

As Hudid spoke, the surrounding black crane screeched loudly. Leeha suspected that the black crane was the ‘big hyung’ in the opposing camp.

The black cranes that were entangled in a battle with the Red Goats around them flapped their wings and soared into the air.

“Don’t let them escape! Capture them!”

“Red goat!”

Although the red goats tried to catch the retreating black cranes by running and jumping on the Red Wood, it was not an easy task. paleo was not in a complete animal form; it only possessed the characteristics of an animal.

The claws of the cranes were far from dull. Even when the Red Goats tried to counter with their horns, paleo’s ‘human arms’ could hold onto them and absorb the impact.

Moreover, flying faster than running on the ground was a whole different challenge.

“Indeed… so, at that time, it was the black cranes planning to attack from the sea.”

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 452

				
 They planned to gather on small, inconspicuous ships that enemies would find difficult to detect, the red goats intended to ambush their enemies’ ships when the black cranes appeared. The current situation revealed that the plan had failed. The black cranes could transform and abandon the ship in the first place, so attacking them would have never been easy.

“Prepare for throwing! Get ready to throw-”

“Stop, Youngblood.”

“… Red goat! Understood, Guardian Deity-nim.”

Aibex watched Hudid and his paleos flying away in the night sky. Youngblood, the ‘eldest hyung’, followed the orders of the Guardian Deity, calming the surrounding red goats. It was a short but intense assault.

“There was an incident like that. This surely is the New Continent…”

Leeha returned and explained to everyone. However, none of the New Continent participants in prison immediately understood or accepted the situation.

“What… What are you talking about?”

“A goat with eyes on its back? A mystical creature?”

“Is it like a dragon?”

“Those paleos? Are they indigenous people who can transform from looking like humans to turning into red goats?”

A barrage of questions was directed at Leeha. However, he couldn’t provide a clear answer.

“Well, well! First of all, the mystical creatures and paleos are different. Um, I’m not sure. About those mystical creatures. Goats with eyes on their backs, or a one-legged creature with a blue head like a black crane… According to that goat, it seems like there are many of them scattered all over this continent.”

Like university students re-enrolling in their courses, the users’ eyes sparkled with anticipation.

“However, whether numerous mystical creatures all lead paleos, protecting their ‘children’ and sharing their power to transform them… about that, I can only speculate, and I still don’t know. Also, I don’t know how strong these mystical creatures are, or how powerful they can become. But-”

Leeha glanced briefly at Bailephus. The Ancient Gold Dragon in human form wore a peculiar expression.

“-I’m sure you’ve all experienced the transformation states and damage of those ‘child-like’ paleos.”

“Of course. The New Continent, no, this ‘Erika Continent’, is originally a place for high-level players… NPCs living here are incomparable to monsters from the old continent.”

Fernand looked at Leeha with eyes full of interest.

It’s already been mentioned that one person was needed for the quest, and his gaze clearly conveyed the desire for Leeha to be that chosen individual.


“Hmm, so… the success or failure of our 『New Continent Quest』 depends on whether Ha Leeha-ssi’s quest is successful?”

Chiyou already understood everything but pretended not to and asked.

To complete the quest, a Mana Relay Tower must be erected within the New Continent. To do that, Leeha had to restore the leader of the Black Cranes, the Guardian Deity ‘Hudid.’

“Yes. That’s correct. I apologize for acting on my own, but there was no other way, and I wanted to let you know in advance-”

“Oh-hohoho, everyone would probably be thankful. If Ha Leeha-ssi takes care of it, we just have to wait here. But our representative wouldn’t hide information or tell lies, right?”

“What do you take me for?”

“Oh, don’t be so scary. It’s no fun if you get all serious about a joke, right? Anyway, good luck!”

Chiyou poked her own cheek with her index finger, adding an exaggerated aegyo. It wasn’t exactly encouragement but rather a way of bringing up what everyone else had grasped.

‘Since I openly declared that I won’t hide anything from everyone, it’s unlikely I will conceal information, even if it’s terrifying”, Leeha thought. Chiyou’s psychological warfare seemed more like pressure and burden on Leeha.

After Chiyou’s words, the gaze of some users changed, creating an uncomfortable atmosphere for Leeha.

‘This troublesome woman… I don’t know how much research was done at the Holy Grill in Gaza City. But it is pretty much confirmed that she is working with Shinobigumi and that she is the ‘hidden hand’… just thinking about-’ Leeha grumbled inwardly.

“Well, who are you going to bring, Ha Leeha-ssi?”

Alexander spoke up.

Although Alexander assumed that Leeha would choose him, Leeha had no intention of bringing him along.

“As much as I’d like to pick both Alexander-nim and Bailephus-nim… anyway, it’s a one-person condition. Aibex won’t treat both of you as one, so-”

Leeha explained.

“Hmm, I’ll have to ask my partner. Bailephus, please”, Alexander admitted. If they were to deal with such matters in the New Continent, Bailephus’s ‘NPC Helper’ tendency would likely be necessary. There was no reason for other users to object.

Leeha immediately spoke to the paleos and hurried to move to the ‘abode of the tribal guardian god’ with Bailippus.

“Bailephus-nim, do you happen to know anything about these beings called ‘mystical creatures’?”

Leeha asked as they walked, guarded by the paleos. However, Bailephus only tilted his head slightly in response.


“I already mentioned it. This is my first time on Erika Continent. However… I seem to have heard something about it before.”

“Heard something?”

Leeha inquired.

“The Lord spoke interesting words. He mentioned encountering ancient beings who couldn’t become dragons, didn’t follow God or the Devil, and were powerful enough to threaten even beyond the Ancient-class, depending on their nature and abilities. Someday, he advised meeting them all and performing the mission. He said something about fascinating creatures.”

“What?! Uh, th-that…”

“Yeah. I’ve been looking forward to this for a long time, even during my time in prison. Rather than worry, it’s more about anticipation and excitement. I’ve been waiting for a being that would finally make me feel excited and look forward to it for thousands of years.”

This time, they didn’t even cover their eyes. The paleos guided Aibex and Bailephus into the abode.

 “Kneel here-”

“Indeed…! Could such beings really exist in the world?”

“R-Red goat! You! Kneel down and sit here!”

The paleos tried to force Bailephus to kneel, but they were unable to do so. Aibex, sitting quietly, also had widened eyes in surprise.

“What is this, what is this?!”

“Do you recognize me?”

With a surprised tone from Aibex, Bailephus smiled. Aibex’s heart was pounding, raising the tension in his muscles.

‘I hope he doesn’t suddenly start jumping around.’

If Aibex and Bailephus were to fight here, the village would be completely devastated.

Fortunately, the feared event did not occur. Aibex continued to sit, observing Bailephus and Aibex alternately, while Bailephus confidently sat in front of him.

“This scoundrel! How dare he act so arrogantly in front of the Guardian Deity-nim—”

“No, no. That’s enough. Bring your eldest hyung here; the rest can leave.”

“R-Red goat!”


The paleos immediately followed their guardian’s orders.

The vast abode, with an open ceiling that gave a sense of space, felt crowded even though there were only three beings inside. However, the feeling of being cramped might be due to the fact that they were the mystical creature of Erika Continent Aibex, the Ancient-class Gold Dragon Bailephus, and the world’s strongest player sniper, Leeha.

‘Why does Bailephus have such eyes?’ Looking at the elderly man’s eyes, which were brighter than when Leeha first saw him, with those sparkling eyes like a child’s.

“Ha Leeha.”

“Oh, yes. Let me introduce you. This person will be performing the mission with me—”

“Um, no, that’s not it.”

“What?”

“He is not a ‘human.’ You promised to perform the mission with a ‘human’, didn’t you?”

“What?”

“Check it yourself.”

This is another trick? Aibex hastily opened the quest window.

『Wake up, my friend』

Content: Heal the contaminated mind of the mystical creature Hudid with a fellow human.

“Ah! Ahhh?!”

Once again, at the very last moment!

‘You Middle Earth scammers, damn it, again!’

Aibex gave an incredulous look, and Aibek’s lips curled into a smile.

Their eyes and mouths were laughing in different places, which looked strange, but what he said was not wrong. From the beginning, it was a request to ‘test the abilities and faith of humans.’ Moreover, if failed, the penalty that would occur was named ‘Achievement – Are Humans Born to Betray.’

Bringing a dragon in human form would violate the rules from the start.

“Youngblood will come soon. Choose a ‘human companion’ to perform the mission together. I’ll be busy during that time. Probably, if my guess is not wrong, it’s a being called a dragon. Is that right?”

“Oh, oh, oh! As expected! Do you know who I am?”

“I remember the rumors. About 3,800 years ago…”

“About that time! Um, yes! That’s right! Our Lord probably said something like that to our clan around that time! If he talks like that, there probably aren’t any dragons in this place, the Erika Continent!”

“Haha, communication is working well. Yes, indeed. I’ve seen many uncultured and low-level creatures, but meeting someone so cultured and sophisticated is a first.”

Leeha looked at the curious expressions of these beings who had skipped 3,800 years with a puzzled face. It was like elderly people from a primary school alumni meeting recalling hazy memories.

“Red goat! Guardian Deity-nim! I’ve received orders!”

Youngblood arrived around that time. Aibek shook his horned head as if he were annoyed and shouted.

“Oh, Youngblood. Come and take Ha Leeha here. We need to bring a human from the prison.”

“Red goat!”

“By the way, bring some drinks on your way. The best ones, I mean.”

“Red goat!”

Youngblood, now turned into a messenger, grabbed Leeha’s bewildered arm and started moving.

Although he was smaller in stature than Leeha, and still not transformed, Youngblood’s sturdy muscles could be felt.

‘Anyway, if it turns out like this, my quest…’

Who to bring, and how to go about it.

Aibex already had a face expressing his lack of interest in beings like Hudid, and Bailephus didn’t show any interest either.

This was a task to be cleared solely with the power of users.

‘There is one person that comes to mind…’

Leeha’s struggle to establish a base for users from the old continent in the new continent was about to begin.

(To be continued…)
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 “Youngblood-nim?”

“What’s the matter, squid?”

“Ugh… Well, if it’s more comfortable for you to call me that way, go ahead. Anyway, do you happen to know where other paleo races are?”

Still a squid? Though it wasn’t a pleasant remark, Leeha chose not to point it out. More important information was needed right now.

“Don’t know. Don’t care.”

“You’re of the same race. Even if you don’t care, you must know something. Or at least the location of other villages?”

“I don’t know. We worship Guardian Deity-nim, engage in activities, hunt, and give birth to children. What does that have to do with other paleos?”

The expression “give birth to children” made it clear that paleos could be distinguished between male and female.

Can female bodies also transform? If so, what would be their form and abilities? Although it was intriguing, it was a less important aspect. Leeha just nodded and asked again.

“Well, you know, at least the approximate locations around… Anything similar to that. Maybe-?”

“Are you talking about our home? That’s in my head. It’s the excellent knowledge passed down from the father to Koma, from Koma to their child in our lineage.”

“Oh, I see.”

It wasn’t what Leeha meant.

Leeha swallowed the rest of his words. He could clearly understand from Youngblood’s firm words that there was no need to pursue that further. 

‘It seems that their appearance and lifestyle, all reminiscent of primitive tribes, were intentionally designed. It could be inferred that they had no knowledge about the Erika continent, considering the setting.’

The only difference was the existence of a guardian deity and the ability to manifest its power. In essence, the term “paleo” meant no different from the primitives or savages shown in TV documentaries. Perhaps the relatively small number of red goats living together might be attributed to the general tendency of all paleos.

If they were content with a simple life and didn’t aim to form large societies, gathering to create a tribe and living modestly in the present, it raised questions. Perhaps, with the guardian deity as the focal point, all paleos were living the life of a small tribe.

‘Well… if that were the case, would it be difficult to approach the locations of other Paleos? Should I consider each territory as the domain of a different race? Maybe this situation is unique, and I shouldn’t expect friendliness from other Paleos or creatures in the future?’

To them, all users, regardless of their race, are akin to suddenly dropped strangers in the foreign land of the Lope Continent.

Did they instinctively understand the significance of clashes between civilizations…?


If they understood that fundamentally, you should consider the potential for hostility. Perhaps every encounter would require a constant demonstration of strength and goodwill. Naturally, this was not a welcome prospect for Leeha.

Creaaaak-!

Finally, the prison door opened again. As Leeha and Youngblood entered, the users were puzzled.

“Eong-ah? Where’s Bailephus-nim?”

“Uh, that’s a bit… Anyway, Bailephus-nim cannot participate in this quest, everyone.”

In response to Kijung’s question, Leeha answered to everyone. Alexander’s eyebrows twitched.

“What happened to my partner?”

“It’s nothing major. Their leader here didn’t approve, so… Ah! You should think of Bailephus-nim’s withdrawal as part of the quest. Right now, Bailephus-nim is happily engaging in a conversation with their leader here, so there’s no need to worry.”

“Hmm…”

Leeha reassured Alexander and then observed the users outside the bars again before getting to the main point. By the time Leeha was about to bring up the main topic, everyone had already understood the situation.

“So, we need to replace one member for the quest-”

“Why are you blabbering, you fool? If you had asked me from the beginning, there would be no need for unnecessary words-”

“No, get back. Luger, sit down since it’s not you.”

Before Luger could even lift his butt, Leeha stopped him. Overwhelming firepower wasn’t necessary for this quest. Hyein’s eyes sparkled for a moment.

“Sorry, this time it’s not spatial magic.”

Fernand, who was silently pleading to be taken along just by moving his lips—a remarkable skill from Leeha’s perspective—was the greatest adventurer and pioneer on the old continent. While his strength was unparalleled even on the new continent, it was challenging to utilize in the current situation.

From the beginning, Leeha had thought of these two individuals, and it was a profession where they could choose one person without much deliberation among the two candidates. There was also no need to consider the other candidate, Chiyou.

“Rubini-nim, will you join me?”

“Oh, uh, me? I thought it wouldn’t be me.”

Rubini looked surprised and adopted a confused posture.


Rubini, who was neither standing nor sitting, alternately looked at Leeha and Shin Nara. Leeha quickly checked Shin Nara and Ram Hwajung’s reactions. Despite initially deciding on Rubini, there was an inexplicable hesitation because of them.

“Would my… presence be helpful?”

“Why such a harsh remark? Of course, it would be.”

Leeha urged Rubini to hurry, but she still hesitated. Subtly, Chiyou seemed about to step forward. However, when she was about to lift her butt, someone beat her to it.

“Oh, come on! Rubini-nim! Why are you hesitating like that? Leeha-ssi has everything planned. Right, Leeha-ssi?”

“Oh? Ah, yes, of course. It’s obvious, Nara-ssi.”

Shin Nara approached Rubini, lightly patting her back. In the encouraging and supportive gestures, no trace of worry could be found in Shin Nara’s eyes. Indeed, Shin Nara’s actions, showing 100% trust in Leeha, resonated with Chiyou.

“Ugh, if I pushed a little harder, I could have made Shin Nara poke Rubini… Too bad, too bad. Well, Shin Nara does have charm. Except for that cheeky expression.”

Chiyou, who aimed to create friction between Shin Nara and Leeha and further sow discord within the expedition force of the new continent, had to admit defeat in her grand plan. Leeha’s boldness, displayed right after their arrival on the new continent, shattered Chiyou’s ambitious scheme.

“Now! There! Rubini-nim!”

“Uh, oh, yes.”

In the end, Rubini was gently pushed forward by Shin Nara toward the window bars. Ram Hwajung briefly glared at Leeha with a displeased expression, but that was all. In some aspects, Ram Hwajung seemed to trust Leeha even more than Shin Nara. She only snorted, turned, and sat back down.

Watching the defiant Ram Hwajung, Leeha briefly touched her forehead.

‘Come to think of it, Ram Hwayeon sent a ticket to Hong Kong, right? Ugh, when going to Hong Kong, I should buy gifts not only for Ram Hwayeon but also for Ram Hwajung.’

While contemplating additional expenses.

“Will need her help?”

“Yes. I will need her help.”

“Red goat! Let’s go to the guardian deity!”

“Let’s go, Rubini-nim.”

“Oh, yes. Um… well… Please take care of me.”


Rubini politely bowed towards Leeha. Leeha, in turn, unexpectedly greeted her with courtesy.

Shin Nara was smiling.

On the contrary, those who seemed nervous and uneasy were Kijung, Biyemi, and others. There was a fear that if they teased Leeha too much, her sword might turn them into kebabs.

“Oh, this time it’s a real human!”

“Hello, I’m Rubini.”

Although she was often perplexed and passive during the journey, facing Aibex, she appeared more confident than Leeha. Even though she had a blindfold, she must have seen Aibex’s appearance. Even if Leeha described it, it shouldn’t be a surprise! Leeha found her impressive once again.

“Yeah, yeah. Is she a female?”

Of course, even someone like her was caught off guard by the magical power of the spirits. Instead of the perplexed Rubini, Leeha stepped forward.

“Ahem, um… Aibex-nim? In the human world, we don’t use such expressions.”

“Expression? Is there another term besides female?”

“No, well… Forget it.”

While Aibex blinked, there was no need for Leeha to insist. Aibex’s appearance was strange, and it had lived for thousands of years, but in the end, the fundamental animal it was based on was a ‘goat.’ There was no need to explain the words ‘male’ and ‘female’ to him.

Leeha suddenly wondered how magical beings like Aibex would reproduce.

“There doesn’t seem to be a similar-looking opposite gender… Maybe, being a magical being means one must exist on its own. There might not even be a concept of reproduction… unless it’s asexual reproduction. Unless it’s not self-fertilization, I can’t think of any other way.”

In that moment of peculiar thoughts, a quest window appeared in front of Rubini as well.

The content was the same as Leeha’s:

『Wake up, my friend』

Content: Heal the corrupted spirit of the fellow human with the help of Aibex’s magical power.

Reward: Construction permit for Mana Relay Tower and Safety Guarantee

Intimacy with Aibex and his Paleos +100%

Intimacy with Hudid and his Paleos +100%

Failure: Achievement – Are humans born to betray?

Intimacy with Aibex and his Paleos -100%

Intimacy with Hudid and his Paleos -100%

However, from now on, it was a shared quest. The only difference was that Rubini also qualified to receive both the failure penalty and success rewards, but she calmly read the quest window and then looked at Leeha.

“Ha Leeha-nim.”

Rubini couldn’t figure out what she should do. Her nickname, “Doctor Doom”, was based on her ability to combine various pieces of information to make deductions. In reality, her skill was limited to creating maps. While she had many other unused skills, looking at the quests, she didn’t feel useful.

Even though she had repeatedly made resolutions to herself while coming this far, she still couldn’t be sure if she would be of any help.

“Rubini-nim, trust me. Only Rubini-nim can do it.”

Leeha looked at her and spoke with conviction.

“… Yes. I’ll trust you. If Ha Leeha-nim says so.”

Her response was swift. Without the need for further words or hesitation, a magical trust in Leeha, making her unable to even think further, blossomed in Rubini’s heart.

“Is it okay, Ha Leeha?”

“Bailephus-nim is right. Can you really communicate with that female? I thought you would choose a capable warrior.”

While Leeha was briefly away, the two beings, who had become like ‘bosom friends’, showed a mix of worry and curiosity. From Aibex’s words, Leeha also felt that this place was truly ‘remote.’

“Rubini-nim is indeed a capable warrior, aibex-nim.”

“A female?”

“Does the presence or absence of abilities, or their excellence, depend on gender? Isn’t that right, Rubini-nim?”

In response to Aibex’s question, Leeha confidently answered.

However, Rubini, the person in question, wasn’t particularly confident.

“But that’s also something I’m worried about… What can I do?”

“Hehe, shall I give you a hint?”

“A hint?”

When Rubini tilted her head, Leeha had a realization.

“Oh, did I get affected by Middle Earth? I spoke too much like a Middle Earth quest. Actually, there’s no need for a hint. Originally, just saying 『Sniping is not done alone』 should be enough.”

Although Leeha confidently raised his thumb, there was no being who understood his words accurately. Not the gold dragon Bailephus, not the mythical creature Aibex, not Youngblood, and not even Rubini, who was doing the quest with Leeha.

“You’ll understand when we go, you’ll understand.”

The reason Leeha chose Rubini was precisely this. Until now, he could only clear quests alone. Even when someone’s power was needed, even when help was desperately needed, he couldn’t get assistance.

‘Because their ‘eyes’ are not as good as mine!’

 Even if he tried to summon someone, their abilities would be lower than Leeha’s.

But Rubini? A skilled individual selected as a member of the Expeditionary Force of the New Continent and even known as the ‘One who sees the future’ with her skill?

What Leeha said as a hint was not just a hint but the answer itself. Sniping is not done alone.

‘There’s no one better observer than Rubini-nim.’

In essence, the user’s strongest observer had joined Leeha’s side.

(To be continued…)
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 Step, step.

Leeha and Rubini were passing through the Redwood Forest. They had already roughly confirmed the location of the tribe where Hudid and the black crane paleos lived, based on information from Aibex and Youngblood.

However, what puzzled Leeha was a slight discrepancy in the explanations between Aibex and Youngblood.

“Phew, this is the first time I am doing something like this. By the way, the red goat’s ‘Guardian Deity’ and the red goat’s strongest warrior, how can they get confused about the location of their neighboring enemy? Isn’t that right, Rubini-nim?”

“Yeah, that’s right.”

“Moreover, telling us to go into enemy territory without a map, it’s just absurd. Ah, I thought it might be easier this time with Rubini-nim present… But well, without a map, it’s not much different.”

As Leeha grumbled, Rubini responded with an amused smile. Despite her smile, Leeha’s complaints were entirely valid.

Reading maps, and the art of navigation—were skills that Leeha excelled at. Even with a roughly drawn map, if he knew the outlines of the enemy tribe, he could gather information while exploring the surroundings and plan the most optimal strategy for the mission.

But now?

“Can’t they at least provide some objective measurements? This ‘mouth-to-mouth’ transmission method really doesn’t work.”

The directions and distances given by Aibex and Youngblood for the black crane tribe were difficult to comprehend, not only in terms of direction but also in units of measurement.

Leeha raised his head, thinking back to the awkwardness of that time. At that moment, he was handed only a single clue: “When the lunch sun is up, look straight at it, take a step to the left, and then ‘red goat’ at full speed for half a day.”

The difficulty lay not just in the vague nature of the instructions but also in the units of measurement.

“When the lunch sun is up” – What exactly is the direction when looking at the sun at noon, and how many degrees is that when considering the azimuth angle?

“How fast does a red goat move, and how much distance can it cover at full speed in half a day?”

“If it travels at full speed for half a day, how many kilometers would that be in units?”

Unable to answer any of these questions clearly, Leeha and Rubini, even with the guidance of Aibex and Youngblood, were essentially stumbling forward, slightly better than blind.

“Rubini-ssi, is this the right direction? We started in the direction Youngblood indicated, but… in forests or mountains, even if you think you’re going straight, you often end up deviating.”

“The direction should at least be correct. The morning sun is up now… This place and the latitude of the Kraven on the main continent should be similar, and the progression of the sun’s direction wouldn’t be significantly different. Considering the position of the sun at lunchtime, the current direction should be very close to what Youngblood mentioned.”

Rubini calmly responded to Leeha’s question. Leeha, satisfied with the answer, smiled and resumed walking. He hadn’t asked out of ignorance.


“It seems so. Okay, understood. Let’s continue.”

Leeha looked at Rubini, pleased with her response, and then continued walking. She didn’t ask out of curiosity.

‘Without any specific skills, she can still determine the direction using the terrain and landmarks. Choosing the Oracle profession wasn’t a mere coincidence. She has always been familiar with observing her surroundings. It’s natural for someone who’s used to it.’

What was her main profession? Hobbies? Determining the direction towards the destination without a compass and map is impossible without well-practiced skills, especially for someone who is not actively engaged in outdoor activities.

“Are you feeling uneasy? Should I generate a map?”

“Hmm… Let’s go for another 1 or 2 hours and see. The skill probably has a cooldown, and there might be mana constraints. You won’t be able to use it for a while, right?”

“Yes, that’s true.”

She still hadn’t used the skill to generate a map. When they left the red goat paleos’ territory, it was night. Leeha had advised against using the skill to avoid drawing attention from the flying paleos above the Blackwood.

“I remember they came quite close to the coast near the village. We should be cautious.”

Leeha recalled when the red goat paleos had pursued the members of the New Continent Expedition near the village, and something had flown in the sky, as mentioned by Youngblood. Now, with the sunrise and the considerable proximity to them, it still wasn’t the time to use the skill excessively.

“Caw, caw, caw!”

The cries of cranes echoed, and several birds soared into the sky.

“Get down.”

“What? Why?”

“Shh.”

Leeha quickly made Rubini crouch down and placed his finger in front of Rubini’s lips. Rubini couldn’t understand why Leeha had suddenly moved like this, especially when he had just mentioned that there was still some distance left. But Leeha knew better.

‘Observation and analysis of any unusual phenomena during guarded marches are fundamental and, above all, crucial.’

While advancing through the forest path, birds suddenly flew up, quite a distance away from Leeha and Rubini. Even though there was no immediate threat from humans, if birds were taking flight, it signaled something.

“There’s something. Have they already reached the perimeter of their alert range?”

It meant there might be something threatening the birds in that direction. Whether it was a black crane or a monster, it was better to be cautious.


Leeha: I’ll check first.

Rubini: Yes? But your skills…

‘『Mana Detection』.’

No casting time, no mana flashes, and no flashy effects. The skills from Black Bass were truly optimized for snipers.

“Zing!”

For a moment, a large Redwood and beyond the bushes, two blue silhouettes came into view.

‘It’s real.’

Creatures carrying something while wandering around. A slightly smaller build with a monkey tail sticking out from the bottom – it was a paleos. If there was a paleos here, there was only one.

“They seem to have reached the scouting range of the black cranes.”

“So soon? How did you… – Never mind. I’ll subdue them first. When I give the signal, please generate the map. Confirm how far the nearest black crane is from here. Wait here for now.”

“Okay.”

As Ruby kneeled, the musketeer’s complaints from moments ago vanished. He now wielded the Black Bass, the successor of the “Accuracy..”

“Sa-back, sa-back, sa-back.”

Leeha lowered his body and moved carefully. The towering Redwood trees surpassed imagination in their height. However, this turned out to be fortunate.

‘I shouldn’t think of guerrilla warfare in the forest. It’s more accurate to consider each tree as a building.’

Leeha regarded the current situation as “urban warfare.”

After distancing himself about 60m from Ruby, Leeha finally found a spot without obstruction from the Redwoods.

“It’s been a while, black Bass.”

Then, he took a magazine from his bag. Only 7 magazines remained. It would all be over after firing 35 shots.

Click! Leeha inserted the magazine. The satisfying metallic sound echoed lightly.


“I wonder when was the last time a sniper fired a rifle.”

Since stabilizing her Sea God transformation, there were hardly any occasions to use the sniper rifle. However, considering the remaining ammunition, it was fortunate.

“Ignore wind direction and speed. The distance is roughly 400m.”

Although using the scope at this distance wasn’t necessary, even the Eagle’s Eyes needed to be conserved.

Leeha adjusted the clicks with a smile on her face. The sensation of the clicks turning was a welcome feeling.

Once adjustments were done, Leeha looked through the scope. The black crane paleos, bustling and making noise, came into view.

Leeha calmly aimed at them.

“Now, back to my main job!”

“Rubini-ssi, now!!”

“And 『Mana Deleting Bullet』!”

Baaaaaaaang—

Gunshots echoed through the Redwood forest. Along with the sudden gunfire, a projectile shot out even faster from Leeha’s rifle. Pa-a-a-ack!

Startled, the paleos exclaimed, “Black crane!?”

“Emergency, emergency! Something’s happening!”

“Are those red goats? We need to inform the guardian deity! Black crane!”

“Black crane!”

Despite their gestures and cries, nothing happened. The paleos looked at each other in confusion.

Then, one of them cautiously extended its neck and peered into the distance.

“Uh! Black crane friends! Whether that transformation skill is fueled by mana or not, who cares? It seems to work! Hehe, it’s working well, it’s working well.”

“What is that—”

“The red goats brought them! Sacrifices! Invaders!”

“Bringing comrades! Black crane!”

Leeha chuckled, making some incomprehensible remarks. The black crane paleos were flustered, reacting like startled chickens.

“Oh? I’m alone, but you guys are bringing comrades? Wait a moment, let me talk, okay?”

“Alone?”

“One person?”

“Yeah, I’m alone.”

Leeha shrugged, and the expressions of the black crane paleos changed. Primitive tribal life seemed to even take away their intelligence. They changed their grip on their weapons and started spewing hostile remarks towards Leeha.

“You’ll regret this, black crane!”

“Invaders who use magic cannot be forgiven! In the name of Hudid!”

Thump, thump, thump, thump!

The black crane paleos swiftly approached. Although they hadn’t enhanced their animals, the basic physical abilities were not to be underestimated.

Leeha flinched for a moment.

‘Rubini-ssi said there were no other cranes within 1 km. Gunshots may not be heard, but—’

Leeha couldn’t shoot Black Bass again. Even if he aimed for non-lethal areas, the basic damage was powerful enough.

What if he tried to kill the crane paleos? This thought created a temporary hiccup for Leeha, who had another plan(?) to achieve 100% affinity after completing the quest.

“Die, beast! Black Cr—”

“Black Cr—”

“It’s noisy. Ever heard of hummingbird pistols? I’m not Kidd, but I can—”

Closing the gap in an instant to a distance of 30m, Leeha revealed what he held in his hands. Besides Black Bass, he had plenty of other weapons.

Tadaaaaang—!

“With this, I can do anything.”

The hummingbird pistol and needle gun pistol spewed flames in an instant. Blood splattered from the approaching cranes, both in confusion and panic.

“Run!”

“What is this? Throwing—”

“As expected, this won’t kill them. Not even a lethal shot.”

Fortunately, they didn’t turn to ash, and Leeha was relieved. However, the destructive power of the first gunshot wound was by no means light!

When the Douroumi paleos hit by the musket pistol needles staggered, Leeha quickly ran towards them.

Pot, pot, pot, pot—!

Although they might have been momentarily confused by the lead pellets, five seconds later, it was more than enough time for Leeha.

The musket pistol, which she had held in both hands, was back at her waist, and in her hands was a different type of weapon.

“Ever experienced an electric shock?!”

“What is this again—”

“We need to defend! Black Cr—”

“ON!”

Even in the uncomfortable sea, Leeha had used electric shock devices against sea deities and mermaids. There was no inconvenience in her movements, and there was nothing on the ground to stop her.

Patsuchuchu—Patsuchuchu—

“Black Cr, cr—”

“Wow, wowowowowowow—”

The bodies of the black crane paleos trembled and shook.

Watching them struggle to even scream properly, shivering and fainting, Leeha smiled happily. Then, he shouted in the direction where Ruby was hiding.

“Rubini-ssi! Did you find any vine-like branches suitable for a leash?”

“Yes, yes! I found some vine, so I cut a little!”

To be confident about what he was going to subdue and then instructing her to find items around for the subsequent pursuit. Rubini’s improvisational planning and fluid execution abilities once again surprised Leeha.

“Here.”

“I’ll handle the tying, so please take a look at the skill map a bit away. We don’t know how good the black cranes’ hearing is.”

“Yes. Don’t worry.”

Leeha grumbled as he tied the hands and feet of the paleos. Until then, there was still no sign of any enemies on Ruby’s hologram map.

“All done. Hey, hey!”

Leeha patted the cheeks of the black crane paleos, urging them to wake up. It was to awaken these excellent helpers (?) who would provide the much-needed information in piles.

(To be continued…)
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 There was no sign of other black crane paleos coming nearby. Since Rubini’s map reached beyond the range of 1km, there was no need to worry much about a surprise attack.

‘It’s not just simple observation. It’s almost like moving with a field command center, right?’

As Leeha comforted himself, hitting the cheeks of the black crane paleos, he briefly glanced at Rubini’s skills and felt reassured.

Cchak!

The ability to perfectly survey the battlefield and pinpoint the enemy’s location was practically close to a cheat.

“Ugh…”

“Oh! Are you awake now?”

Black crane!

Black crane!

Cchak!

With another slap, the black crane paleos finally opened their eyes. As they saw Leeha and Rubini in front of them, they attempted to scream and struggle. However, Leeha’s hands were faster than their wriggling.

“Remember this? Shut your mouth.”

Leeha raised the end of the object he was holding, and a current sizzled, making the black crane paleos’ eyes widen. They nodded their heads quickly.

“Bl-Black crane…”

“Now, I’m going to ask you a few questions. If you don’t answer or if your answer lacks sincerity, I’ll give you a little shock, and oh! The most important thing, if you say ‘I don’t know’, you’ll get a shock every time. Understood?”

“… I don’t..”.

“I told you to just answer, right? ON.”

“-le- lul-lul1—-1- lul-lul一”

This time, the duration was not long. It was just enough time for the current to flow and make them feel considerable pain. Leeha didn’t feel good about electrocuting the barely (?) captured black crane paleos, as it went against the principles of “information gathering” rather than torture.

Leeha wiped away the drool at the corner of the black crane paleos’ mouth with a gentle touch and smiled brightly. What kind of recognition would the black crane paleos, who saw an “unfamiliar human” for the first time, have in their eyes?


For Leeha, there were more important things to use his divine senses on than the NPC of the New Continent.

“How far is your tribe from here?”

Leeha inquired.

“It’s here- this- that way, that way.”

“I’m asking about the distance, not the direction. ON-”

“Ah, ah! Black crane! Mercy rule!”

“Mercy? Hmm… No.”

“Please, please-”

Bzzzzzt———-!

“-Bzzzzzztl!”

This time, the timing was even shorter than before. Leeha quickly released the electric shock device. At least once, he could have shown mercy. It was allowed. However, Leeha wanted to make it clear. Of course, there was a valid reason for it.

‘The mana freeze has run out. I have to make sure that they don’t even think about transforming.’

It was one of the things he learned through his bones when he was in military.

“Now, let’s start again. How far is your tribe from here?”

The smile on Leeha’s face was nothing short of devilish. The black crane paleos immediately responded without the habitual “Black crane.”

“We’ll arrive in about an hour if we fly.”

“Flying for an hour, hmm… Reconnaissance, are there only you guys who have come out?”

“That’s right.”

“In which direction, how many at a time? What’s the interval? Shift time and personnel, location?”

Leeha meticulously extracted the information he needed.


During this time, Rubini prepared for the disappearance of the skill, meticulously copying and drawing the terrain and landmarks on the hologram map she created, including contour lines.

After thoroughly asking for various information, Leeha finally brought up the main topic.

“Hudid… Your tribe’s guardian deity has changed recently, right? I heard it from the red goat paleos. The relationship between Aibex and Hudid was very good. But why did it suddenly change? Since when?”

Certainly, Bluebeard must have done something. Did he make contact? If so, did the paleos witness it? If there was no contact at all, how did Bluebeard corrupt Hudid?

Leeha’s eyes flashed. When Hudid’s name was mentioned, the eyes of the black crane paleos, who had been trembling until now, also changed slightly.

“… I don’t know about that.”

“Alright!”

Cchak! cchak!!

Leeha clapped. The black crane paleos looked confused. Leeha raised his right hand again and smiled happily.

“You finally said it! Do you remember what I said earlier? If you answer ‘I don’t know’, what happens?”

“T-Tw…twice, no! No! I don’t know! No!”

The electric shock device glowed even when it approached the black crane paleos. The one who had fainted in the commotion woke up again.

As soon as he woke up and understood the situation, the paleos glared at Leeha.

“Who are you! Who dares to do this to us-”

Leeha couldn’t stand to leave him like that.

Bzzzzzt———–!

“-Get-gegegegegue—!”

“This guy is getting on my nerves… Hey, tell me. Who am I?”

Leeha casually electrocuted the newly awakened one, then frowned at the paleos who had already woken up. The paleos who had almost been electrocuted twice for answering ‘I don’t know’ quickly approached his fellow and began yelling.

Leeha didn’t wake up the other one directly for a reason. There was one individual marked by fear, and having him would make future ‘information gathering’ even faster.


After the conversation with the black crane paleos ended, the two paleos looked at each other and were subjected to the final warning by Leeha.

“Why did Hudid change recently, when did it happen, were there any strange people, did anything happen after going somewhere? Anyway, tell me everything about any signs of abnormalities. The one who speaks late gets a 5-second jolt.”

“I-I’ll tell you! A month ago, we found something below Hudid’s right wing…”

“The…black cap! I saw something like a small cap buried under Hudid’s right wing…”

“Cap? Hat?”

Military life’s most challenging aspect is not mere physical training. In the realm of ‘information gathering’, the most effective method is still, in other words, ‘first come, first served.’

With a beast-like glint in his eyes, Leeha effortlessly acquired all the information about the black crane paleos without engaging in significant combat. Rubini observed a different side of Leeha with a mixture of fear and admiration.

“I’ve generated the map. The marked points here are all the paleos.”

“Well, they didn’t lie after all. I was half-expecting some resistance or maybe even some threats.”

As Leeha chuckled, Rubini seemed a bit taken aback.

After maintaining control for so long, the fact that there was almost no resistance or threats was surprising.

‘Even when leaving, he ended up stunning them… I don’t know what to make of Hahi’s real nature.’

Since the duration of the mana freeze had expired, once Leeha and Rubini left, they could immediately return, informing the tribe of the attack.

Leeha, having gathered all the information, released them, and coincidentally, they arrived at this location.

It would take about an hour for the transformed black crane paleos to fly the distance, even with heightened vigilance. However, Leeha and Rubini had no reason to avoid them.

After approximately two hours of walking, they began to see the outskirts of the black crane paleos’ tribe on the map.

“Sabak… Sabak…”

In Rubini’s map, everything from monsters to animals was marked. However, in the vicinity, there were no creatures other than the black crane paleos.

‘They must have killed anything that posed a threat in the surroundings to strengthen the foundation of their village.’

This aspect actually made it easier for Leeha and Rubini to approach. Moreover, the giant trees of Redwood provided natural cover.

The only concern was the possibility of being detected through aerial surveillance, but Rubini’s map covered a wider radius than the black crane’s vision, so that wasn’t a problem.

As long as they remained cautious with their sounds, the two moved swiftly around the outskirts of the black crane paleos’ tribe.

“Is there anything special marked on the map?”

“There seems to be a gathering of paleos marked on the map. This might be the ‘courtyard’ they mentioned.”

“Alright. After passing through the courtyard, the third building should be Hudid’s residence, right?”

“Probably that… Oh! Ah! Ha Leeha-ssi!”

“Yes?”

“This… This is it!”

Continuing their conversation, Leeha and Rubini kept moving. However, Rubini’s footsteps came to a sudden halt. The reason for this interruption was evident when they looked at her map skill. A massive point was marked at the northern end.

“Indeed.”

Finally, Hudid’s figure came into view for Leeha as well.

Although the map was still in 2D, it was simply represented, but Leeha remembered the details.

“The external limbs, blue head, and the red dot embedded in the black body… Now, the problem lies in the detailed strategy.”

Leeha had thoroughly assessed the surrounding terrain, landmarks, the creatures’ behavior, patrol routes, and even the timing. Moreover, he knew the target and its location.

However, the challenge was how to proceed. Leeha pondered while looking through Rubini’s map.

“Miss Rubini.”

“Yes?”

“Do you know how to climb trees? No, this might be faster.”

“Climb trees? What’s—”

Swoosh!

Rubini was suddenly caught off guard as an invisible force wrapped around her waist, pulling her closer to Leeha.

“Ha Leeha-ssi!”

『Mongmongmongmong…』

However, even inspecting her waist, Rubini couldn’t discern anything. There was something translucent encircling her slender waist, revealing eyes, nose, and mouth, creating a cute yet eerie feeling for Rubini.

“Don’t worry. It’s mine. Let’s go, Jellypong! First, send her up, on top of that tree!”

『Monmonmon-!』

The entity was Jellypong. The water elemental swiftly ascended into the tree with Leeha and Rubini, shooting up like a rocket.

“Splendid!”

“It’s more enjoyable than you think, right? I’ve only tried it once before—unbelievably refreshing!”

Leeha’s hair fluttered in the wind as they soared upward. Rubini, however, stared directly at Leeha, her gaze piercing through the wind, as if she could see through the blindfold.

Unaware of this gaze, Leeha enjoyed the wind until they reached the top.

『Mongmongmong…』

“Thanks. We can go in now. Miss Rubini, hold on tight.”

『Myongmyong-!』

The hand—or rather the face—of Jellypong, which had been gripping Rubini’s waist, vanished into Leeha’s vest.

Finally, Leeha surveyed the surroundings. What was the angle of the sunlight? From which direction could the enemies come? What position would provide the most optimal ballistic trajectory?

The essence of sniping lies in waiting.

However, one cannot wait endlessly. In the swift and decisive art of sniping, drawing out the enemy is fundamental. Having completed all calculations, Leeha nodded and instructed Rubini.

“Just examine the map carefully and lie down on the other side of the leaves. Stay well hidden, so you won’t be noticed.”

“What? Just like that?”

“Yes, stay hidden. Don’t get caught.”

“But—”

“Then I’m off!”

Whoosh!

Before Rubini could finish speaking, Leeha had already activated a skill. Watching the platinum light emanating from his body, Rubini momentarily lost focus, then with a “Haaat!” sound, Leeha gracefully moved along the branches.

Nevertheless, she followed Leeha’s instructions thoroughly.

『Huuu-di-id』 O foolish mystical creature of Redwood!”

A moment later, a colossal dragon, an illusion of the Platinum Dragon Bahamut, appeared. Its thunderous voice shook the entire Redwood.

(To be continued…)
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 “… They reacted! Everyone is on the move, ignoring the terrain and obstacles!”

“As expected. They’ve transformed and are flying towards us. Now, everyone, stay well hidden! If it gets dangerous, tear up your scrolls!”

“I should be fine, but what about Leeha-nim—?”

Rubini, who had distanced herself a bit while hiding her body, was checking the map and informing Leeha. The time until she raised her head again was about 3 seconds.

“Ha Leeha-nim… where is Ha Leeha-nim?”

In the air, there was only the colossal illusion of Bahamut. From the top of the towering Redwood, Rubini’s forlorn voice echoed.

Ha Leeha’s figure had already vanished, hidden in the act of scanning the map and alerting Leeha. Only the immense illusion of Bahamut lingered in the empty space.

Camouflage didn’t even appear on that map, she didn’t even realize Leeha was giggling.

Leeha: Please continue talking! I am listening!

“Yes, yes! They’ve all started moving, including Hudid.”

Leeha: Okay, preparing to engage.

Leeha pulled out the magazine from Black Bass, checked the cartridge, and reinserted it. While normally, he would have replaced the four remaining rounds in the magazine with new ones, at this moment, he didn’t have the luxury for that.

“I need to save every bit. I need to set up the mana relay tower quickly and visit Bottleneck-ssi.”

After receiving reports from Rubini that the distance between them and Hudid was gradually closing, it wasn’t long before Leeha could see a group of entities darkening the sky at the edge of his vision.

Hudid and the black crane paleos were weaving through the air.

“Black Crane! What’s that?!”

“Bl-Black Crane! Unidentified entity!”

The approaching black cranes hesitated for a moment.

Even from a distance, the majesty of Bahamut was enough to impress those who were seeing a dragon for the first time. The mere appearance of Bahamut was intimidating enough for the creatures witnessing him for the first time.

“Guardian deity, since the identity of that unknown being is unclear, it might be-”


“No need for that. It’s a dragon. A presence comparable to ours beyond the continent. Don’t be entangled by appearances such as their inflated size. Fulfill the duties as the eldest.”

“Black… Crane.”

The black crane near Hudid responded in a low voice. If Hudid himself acknowledged it as a “similar existence”, then it meant the creature was more than a match for a greater guardian.

While it was evident that ordinary palaeos like themselves couldn’t confront such beings, the NPCs among the paleos couldn’t refuse the command of their guardian deity.

“Black Crane! Hudid will join us! Let’s bring down the oversized coward who dared to insult our Guardian Deity!”

The black cranes roared together in a deafening, quacking sound. Though it was a noisy spectacle, the unity of nearly three hundred black cranes carried an undeniable sense of fear and force.

『Do these insignificant creatures dare to hinder me! Hudid, the stupid fool! Remember your own appearance before falling into the hands of Bluebeard, le, or else! That alone is the only way for you to escape-』

Fwaaaaah!

『-with your life!』

A blast of white flames erupted from Bahamut’s mouth. As it was just a projection attack, the fiery image in the sky was sufficient to quell the heightened morale of the black cranes from moments ago.

The additional effect of provoking their Lesser Folk Guardian was a bonus.

“Do you think I fell victim to Le, dragon? I encountered him just two months ago! He fled after losing to me, leaving his tail behind! How dare you, an insignificant creature, spout such nonsense to me, the mightiest being of the Redwood!”

“Hu, Hudid-nim?”

Hudid burst out shouting. Though the distance was considerable, his voice carried well enough to reach the location of Bahamut. The initial position where I had summoned Bahamut, appropriately shifted in the direction I’d chosen, was a location that should naturally be heard even from the location where Hudid had originally been.

“A month after the black crane paleos said they encountered Bluebeard, he must have arrived on the New Continent two months ago. But did they really fight?”

Furthermore, Bluebeard fled after losing? Leeha pondered for a moment, but he had to shake his head soon.

“Is it memory manipulation, or more than just corrupting the mind, maybe even inducing hallucinations? Like the sea god experienced. If so, then his divine power holds abnormal status, not just simple mental contamination.”

By this point, Leeha had to acknowledge the tremendous ability of Bluebeard. If Hudid had won, the testimony of the black crane paleos couldn’t have matched up.

Using his viewpoint as the reference, Leeha positioned Bahamut’s projection about 2 o’clock. Hudid and the black crane paleos created a scenario where they blocked his line of sight, facing Bahamut at 10 o’clock.

In other words, Hudid, Bahamut, and Leeha formed a triangle with each vertex. The distances between the three vertices were around 1.5 km each. It meant that it was enough to observe them with his scope.


The feathers between Hudid’s massive right wing contained what the captured black crane paleos had testified to—the source of contamination, Bluebeard’s cap.

The distance between Hudid and Bahamut was gradually closing. Opportunities wouldn’t come often.

When all the black cranes around Hudid went out for the attack, that is, the interference minimized the obstruction between Leeha and Hudid.

‘Additionally, Bahamut must disappear as an illusion. The most confusing moment for them would be when these two situations overlap.’

Before Hudid and the black crane paleos realized that Bahamut was an illusion and just before they began searching their surroundings—a moment of ‘confusion and panic’!

At that moment, Leeha instinctively knew it was the perfect time to shoot.

However, the confusion would be brief, maybe around 3 seconds at most. Hudid and the black crane paleos would move, but the straight-line distance between them and Leeha wouldn’t change significantly.

‘If it were a quest to shoot Hudid, it would have been incredibly easy. The target to hit is the hat. Its diameter is probably within 30 cm.’

‘But this damn game wouldn’t be that generous. At this distance and with that size, missing could mean game over, right?’

Smaller than a human head, there’s even a possibility that missing might plunge the bullet into Hudid’s torso. Though it’s not a headshot, penetrating near the heart might still result in an instant death judgment.

So, Bahamut would disappear in 3 seconds. A distance of approximately 1.5 km.

The target is a tiny item under Hudid’s right wing, similar to a human hat. The sniper difficulty is close to the maximum.

‘Whew, ignore wind direction and speed. Adjust the click.’

Click, click, click.”

“And then, I pull the trigger. The heavy sound of a bullet resounded, and the loading sound echoed as the bullet was loaded into Black Bass.

At the moment when the distance between Hudid and Bahamut narrowed to within 1 km, Leeha finally moved.

“Go. 『Black Crane』.”

“Black crane! “Black Crane! In the form of burning spikes! Charge!”

Gwaahhiiii—^_I

One by one, flames began to ignite on the bodies of the black cranes. Shortly after, a flaming V-shape was formed heading towards Bahamut. The flight speed was gradually increasing.


‘Haah… black cranes swarm in motion. Hudid is stationary. During hovering, there’s a possibility of changing direction… Target locked.’

Gwaahhh—꽈•Aaaa—

『There’s no match for the impudence of these creatures! Even if it means having two lives!”』

“Dragon! You thought too lightly of the strongest being in the Red Wood! Don’t you know that unless it’s an opponent like Aibex, my children’s assault cannot be stopped!”

Hudid shouted from his place. The distance between the black cranes and Bahamut was already within 300m.

I wasn’t even blinking. There was no need to look directly with my eyes at the moment of collision with Bahamut and the disappearance of the illusion.”

『Come at will! Creatures like you—』

Gwahhhh—j

The black cranes were undoubtedly brave. Their flaming, spear-shaped large-scale assault collided magnificently with Bahamut’s body.

Shwaaaahh…!

Of course, they couldn’t know the reason their forms disappeared in a dust-like manner shortly after.

“Left? gwah•Ack?”

“Black Crane?!”

“This creature—Dragon using sorcery tricks?!”

Flap—Flap—Flap—

—!

The moment of their confusion and panic, along with the pitiful flapping sounds of the black cranes and Hudid, was when a sudden deafening noise occurred.

Baaaaaang——

No, precisely before the sound occurred, something had scraped and passed beneath Hudid’s right wing.

Thud—!

The bullet just grazed the hat, barely touching Hudid’s main body. Through the scope, Leeha could see Bluebeard hat beneath the right wing disappearing.

‘Good Shot!.

’

The fact that his instincts were still sharp delighted Leeha.

“Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Phew, it’s been a while since something quite intense happened. I haven’t been sniping much lately, so I thought-”

While enjoying Rubini’s exclamation, Leeha suddenly felt something strange. Bluebeard hat turned into dust, scattering in the wind.

Certainly—!

“… But why isn’t it over?”

However, there was no time to be puzzled as the quest completion notification did not come.

Just as Leeha predicted, Hudid and the black cranes’ panic lasted only about three seconds. The original plan required Hudid to regain his senses and Leeha to have the leisure to mention the ‘real enemy’ to him after the panic subsided.

However, Hudid did not recover his composure, and the panic ended!

Moreover, before there was time to be perplexed, the direction of the noise was pinpointed by the beast-like Paleos.

“Children, over there!”

Paaahhh—!

“Black Crane! There’s a hidden sorcerer!”

“Kill them! The red goat tribe is using magic!”

Flutter, flutter, flutter!

The Black Drummies, which had been gathered where Bahamut was, swiftly changed direction. The sudden increase in speed, combined with Rubini’s shouting, confused Leeha.

“Ha Leehanimg! Quest completion rate 50%!”

“What?”

“The quest window shows a completion rate of 50%!”

“50% – damn it! In that case-”

Using mana freezing and musket pistols, Leeha had captured the black crane paleos, and they were not lying. They just hadn’t grasped the whole picture.

“-There’s another one somewhere, right!? Where-”

Leeha immediately raised Black Bass. The plan had already gone awry.

Plan B? There was no Plan B for this situation. Escaping was an option at any time, but once the opportunity was missed, it would be challenging to create a similar situation again.

“-In that case, first, 『Mana Evaporating Bullet〉』

The cooldown for Mana Evaporating Bullet was 30 minutes, and it had long since been reset.

Leeha immediately raised the scope. Should he shoot the approaching Black Drummy swarm from the 2 o’clock direction? Leeha’s choice was not that.

Hudid must not die.

However, to find another Bluebeard hat, it was necessary to neutralize him.

“Don’t die, please!”

He had to worry about such things even as he pulled the trigger!

Leeha’s scope was slightly lowered compared to before. What he aimed for was Hudid’s outer leg, specifically the “tip of the claw”!

“The difficulty just went up, damn it!”

Tukwaaaaang—

By the time the roaring sound was heard, Hudid could suddenly feel the wind blowing under his feet. The air pressure created by Leeha’s bullets passing by sent chills to his liver.

(To be continued…)
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 “Huh?!”

The black cranes were approaching, but Hudid couldn’t move quickly. The target was Hudid’s outer leg at a distance of 1.3km, specifically the tip of his claw within just 10cm.

With increased difficulty compared to before, hitting the target without proper preparation was impossible for Leeha as well.

“Damn it! A misfire! I have to adjust the click!”

Leeha bit his lower lip until it almost bled.

Click, click. Despite delicately adjusting the click, he knew it was already too late.

Even if he hit now, the mana freeze bullet would have no effect. Having missed the only opportunity, Leeha prepared for retreat. If only Rubini hadn’t shouted.

“The hat! All we need to do is find Bluebeard hat, right?!”

“Yes? Ah, yes. But first, let me scroll—”

“Leave it to me. Before the black cranes arrive, I will tell its location to Leeha-nim.”

“How will you, Rubini-nim, manage to—”

Leeha couldn’t respond to Rubini’s words.

How now? It was difficult even with the scope of Black Bass to find Bluebeard hat. At that time, it was possible only because there was no special threat.

If they think about Hudid and the black cranes approaching them, there is no time to find it leisurely.

“Wasn’t the reason you chose me for this? 『3D Scanner: Partial Fix』.”

Rubini smiled and activated her skill. It was a moment when her skill, which she had used in the Sea of Dawn, emitted light even more precisely. Whoaaa…!

“This, this is…”

After a moment, the only thing that appeared before Rubini and Leeha was a single life form. The holographic representation of Hudid reduced to a certain ratio, was visible before their eyes. Every movement, down to the smallest detail, was faithfully recreated.

“I focused all the abilities of the 3D scanner on Hudid. It shows Hudid’s current state as is, and you can even zoom in on the parts you want to see—”

Swoosh, swoosh!


Rubini manipulated the hologram as if handling a smartphone screen. She zoomed in on Hudid’s furry head from a top-down perspective and then enlarged his chest and abdomen from a bottom-up perspective.

“I’ll find it right away.”

It was what Leeha had been anticipating from the beginning! Unlike ordinary users, she could see a bit more from a distance. Not only could she change the viewing angles, but she could also unearth all the information about the target. Rubini was fulfilling the role of the ultimate “observer.”

Watching her move the perspective and zoom in on different parts of Hudid, Leeha realized what she needed to do.

“Great! It’s the hat! An animal like that wouldn’t wear a hat unless it stands out! The size is around 30cm!”

“I understand! Ha Leeha-nim, you—Kkak!”

Leeha pulled the trigger without warning. Rubini let out a short scream at the sudden gunshot, but her scream was more like a playful exclamation.

Swoosh—Kwa■Aaah—

Hudid, flying towards Leeha, glowed and roared. The tremendous roar was enough to halt the wings of the black cranes approaching at high speed.

“B-Black crane! Protect Lord Hudid! Form a defense barrier for Guardian Deity-nim!”

“Guardian Deity-nim has been affected!”

“Black crane! Everyone, protect Lord Hudid! Activate the defense barrier for Guardian Deity-nim!”

Seeing the black cranes, Leeha pulled the trigger again without warning, shouting to Rubini, “Find it quickly! I’ll buy time!”

Leeha realized his mission was to buy time. He needed to find another hat somewhere on Hudid’s body.

‘Of course, he wouldn’t die so easily. I’m relieved.’

Leeha looked through the scope again. There was only one toe left on Hudid, and one at the end was completely missing.

‘Hmm, can’t really say it’s a new toe. Too much blood for a tribe ceremony, isn’t it?’

Leeha deduced from the relationship between Aibex and the Red Goat Paleos. Just like how Paleos lived for their patron deity, in the event their tribal patron was attacked, the behavior of other Black Cranes would be dulled, matching Leeha’s expectations.

“I won’t let you live! Sorcerer of the red goat—red goat?”

“Are you okay, Guardian Deity-nim!” The larger black crane paleos flew near Hudid, but Hudid’s expression was not good.


“The red goat… Aibex. Why is Aibex here?”

“What are you talking about?”

“… Big one? What’s going on? Why are we here?”

Hudid’s expression was perplexed. However, the expression of the eldest black crane paleos looking at his face was even more bewildered.

“T-That, what—what do you mean? I can’t understand what you’re talking about, lord Divine Protector.”

“No, why are we…”

Flap—Flap—!

Hudid looked at his only remaining leg, fluttering his wings. His expression, watching the blood spurting from the place where the toes were severed, slowly began to change again.

“What are you doing? Hurry up and kill that thing. Except for a few who will build the wall, everyone else charge.”

“B-Black crane!”

Soon, Hudid’s atmosphere returned to normal. The larger black crane paleos responded in surprise and began to give commands.

“Only twenty brothers remain! Other brothers, keep your distance! Don’t get entangled in his sorcery!”

“Black crane!”

Flap—Flap—Flap—!

The black cranes that were approaching Leeha changed direction and flew towards Hudid.

“Rubini! Haven’t you found it yet?!”

“Not yet—not yet—”

“I know you don’t like being rushed, but please hurry!”

The view of Hudid through the scope was gradually obscured. Between Hudid and Leeha, there was a solid wall of black crane paleos’ flesh.

At the same time, there were also countless undead creatures flying towards Leeha and Rubini at a rapid speed.


“Go, my sons! Ride the undead dogs of Aibex and kill them! 『Gwangyeom』!”

Whirr—!

Leeha swallowed dryly. The fiery black crane paleos, which had fearlessly charged towards the illusion of Bahamut, was now heading straight for him.

Fortunately, Rubini’s reassuring voice quickly reached him.

“Ah! I found it! It’s right behind the connection point between the neck and the body! If you think of it as a human, it’s behind the cervical spine!”

“But you can never hit that area from the front.”

However, the result was far from optimistic. A way to target the back of an opponent facing the front? Unless bullets can curve, there’s no such magic in sniping.

Kwaaaaak— Kwaaaaak_

The fiery charge of the black crane paleos had already reached within 1 km. Leeha had to brace himself.

“Rubini-nim, if it gets too dangerous, run away immediately. Got it?”

“What? R-Run away? What about you, Ha Leeha-nim?”

Rubini was perplexed. Leeha wondered what expression she might be making with her eyes uncovered. What expression does one make in a situation like this?

“You’ve worked hard to find it, Rubini-nim. I’ll see it through. I’ll be back! If it gets dangerous, make sure to run away!”

“Alone? Are you planning to go alone, Ha Leeha-nim? Ha Leeha-nim—”

Paaat—!

Without hearing Rubini’s words, Leeha jumped from the treetop.

Facing the approaching enemies head-on was impossible. Not only would it put Rubini in danger, but even if that weren’t the case, it was impossible to hit the hat behind Hudid’s cervical spine.

‘Jellypong!’

And as he worried, Leeha wasn’t truly ‘alone.’ While Blaugrunn wasn’t brought along, there was Jellypong, who would support him more reliably than anyone else in battle.

Chuwaat, chuwaaaat—! Without any special instructions from Leeha, Jellypong started extending its hands, ready to swing on the trees. With Jellypong’s swift movements, even faster than a skilled monkey, Leeha traversed the Redwood Forest.

The direction was slightly different from where the black crane paleos were coming from at 10 o’clock. It was the 2 o’clock direction where Bahaumt’s illusion had appeared. Looking at the cold wind and the afternoon sunlight, Leeha felt a bit regretful. What if it was a quest to kill them all? Even though the black crane paleos numbered in the hundreds, Leeha was confident.

‘The combination of multiple warheads and a flamethrower could have blown up at least half of them. Sigh!’

However, that wasn’t an option this time. The reward details for this quest were clear:

『Friendship with Hudid and his Paleos +100%』

Even if the goal was to save Hudid, if he killed a lot of paleos, he wouldn’t be able to fully utilize the 100% bonus. Naturally, his aim was the ‘achievement’ in this situation.

‘Tsk, so even though I knocked those two out before without killing them… Well, in the worst case, I might have to kill a few. Clearing the quest is the priority.’

He aimed for two rabbits, but if that wasn’t possible, he would aim for at least one clear target. While swiftly moving between the branches of the Redwood, Leeha didn’t forget to keep an eye on the black crane paleos.

About 400m away from the location where the black crane paleos and Leeha were!

Although she had initially headed towards the 2 o’clock direction where Bahaumt’s illusion was, Leeha changed her direction again to approach Hudid. However, they had to be faster than ever.

‘Let’s increase the speed. Faster, faster than the flight of the black crane paleos! Turn here!’

『Mongmongmongmong!』

The effect of the teleport scroll didn’t seem to show. It meant that Rubini hadn’t fled yet! Even though Leeha knew Rubini’s approximate location and direction, the black crane paleos, who hadn’t spotted her, would charge at her without hesitation.

Zuaaaat—! Hwaaaaat—!

After changing direction towards Hudid, Jellypong accelerated further according to Leeha’s wind.

‘Getting closer, he hasn’t noticed yet.’

Glimpses of Hudid’s body appeared through the leaves. The flesh wall of the black crane paleos was shielding him from them. Where would the hat be, just behind the base of the neck? How far would he have to aim?

‘In practice, it’s almost like shooting “attached.”

Anyway, since he’s at a higher point than the Redwood.’

If he hadn’t completely caught up with him, he wouldn’t be able to shoot from the tree. Because he couldn’t see. Even if Leeha had caught up, he couldn’t shoot carelessly. There was a possibility that the bullet might penetrate the hat and shatter Hudid’s neck.

In the end, just like when shooting the hat of the wing tip, his only option was to fly in a diagonal direction.

“Search carefully! And once you find him, set him on fire immediately!”

“Black crane! Understood, eldest hyung!”

Paaaat—!

The black crane paleos, which were soaring, began their descent. The black crane paleos were now almost reaching Rubini’s position. Leeha, who had increased her speed, was also about to reach the spot directly below Hudid.

The distance was within 100m!

“Black Crane! Over here-”

Shaaat—!

A column of violet light soared up at that moment. Leeha could also see that scene.

“Whoa?! Something—something used magic again! He disappeared!?”

“Black crane! What are you talking about?”

“Something that looks similar to a paleos was here, but it just hid its presence!”

One of the black cranes, in confusion, reported to their elder. Although Leeha couldn’t hear their voices, he could roughly understand. They didn’t grasp the concept of teleportation.

(To be continued…)
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 “How did it happen? Can you hear what your eldest hyung is saying?”

“B-Black crane! I’m not sure either, guardian deity-nim.”

Hudid, who was still hovering and flying in place, and the red-crowned crane had a conversation. Although Leeha couldn’t hear the sound from where the eldest hyung was, he could hear their current voice very well.

“Let’s go, Jellypong! Rise——–!”

Shaaat——————-!

In the Redwood Forest, a black shadow burst out -! “What?!”

“What, what is it?! Where did -”

“It’s right beneath you! Wake up, Hudid!”

The giant black crane turned its head. However, its body and neck remained frozen! Finally, the tiny hat behind the neck came into Leeha’s view.

‘It would have been good to shoot it while riding behind Jin Gonggong-ssi’s back!’

But not now! In a situation where it’s soaring into the sky, shooting is not possible. If there is a gap, it is only when the movement stops right before falling to the ground!

Whooosh……!

“Burn this bastard right now!”

“Black Crane! Fierce assault!”

Haaaaah…….

Leeha’s body suddenly stopped. It started plummeting towards the Redwood trees again. There was only about 0.5 seconds left! That was enough.

『Calm Mind』.’

Click. Baaaaaaang———–! Leeha pulled the trigger.

In that fleeting moment suspended in the air.

“What the hell!”


However, Leeha could only curse. At the moment of pulling the trigger, a deafening roar echoed, and a wall of fire, tinting his vision red, ignited in the empty space.

Fwaaarrrrrrrr….!

Hudid’s unique ability, burning the air without any combustibles, completely engulfed the space between Hudid and Leeha. Leeha’s strategy was excellent. The power of Jellypong was indeed formidable. However, the strength of Jellypong was ‘too’ powerful, creating a flaw. It propelled Leeha higher than expected, extending the time for his descent in the air.

Although Hudid couldn’t perceive Leeha’s attack, the time was sufficient for Hudid, who had already lost one toe, to prepare.

“I don’t know what attack it was, but it was excellent. However, it seems insufficient to pierce through 『Flame Wall』.”

Beyond the flames, Hudid’s voice echoed. Leeha had anticipated this since before the quest alert appeared.

Fwuaaaah-!

The wall of fire scattered in all directions. Out of the pierced flame wall emerged Hudid himself!

“Raise your spirit high, for I shall kill you in one blow!”

It was more like a single spear. Hudid folded his wings, extending his entire body in a straight line, flying towards Leeha.

“Ugh, aaaaah-!”

Leeha witnessed the rapidly enlarging form of Hudid. In this situation, there was no other choice. The quest was no longer important. He had to shoot and kill!

“Zenzhaaaah-!”

Click-!

Leeha urgently pulled the trigger, but what echoed was not gunfire. It was the hollow resonance of empty chambers. All four bullets in the magazine had already been used.

“.. Ah-”

Kwaaaaaah————

Hudid’s beak pierced Leeha’s abdomen.

“Black Crane! The Guardian Deity has defeated the sorcerer!”

“Black Crane!”


As the eldest of the black cranes shouted, all the paleos in the sky roared. They either made duck-like cries or shouted their divine protection, flying joyously through the air.

For the sake of his offspring, Hudid soared into the sky, holding Leeha in his beak, performing aerobatics like a fighter jet, rolling and pitching without slowing down. The Paleos witnessed this scene, not just as divine protectors but also as a majestic spectacle of a giant crane’s beak piercing through the sorcerer.

And in the midst of this spectacle, it wasn’t just the Paleos who saw the sight of the sorcerer hanging limp from the mighty beak of the crane.

“Ha Leeha-niiiiiiiiim——!”

Rubini’s scream echoed through the Redwood, carried along with the breeze.

It wasn’t teleportation but only a short-range blink scroll that allowed her to evade at close quarters. Rubini had vowed to stay hidden until Leeha finished his work, but witnessing his current state, she couldn’t stay still.

“The sorcerer who fled is over there!”

“Capture her! Kill her!”

“Black crane——!”

Shwaaaat-!

The black cranes spread their wings and accelerated again. As the distance for using Blink to escape was limited, the gap between Rubini and the black cranes remained close.

“Please wait a moment, Guardian Deity-nim! Soon, we will offer another sorcerer as a sacrifice!”

The ‘eldest’ shouting towards Hudid suddenly widened his eyes. In the sky, Hudid’s beak still seemed to hold the sorcerer. Or at least, that’s what they thought.

However, at this moment, the sorcerer’s body wriggled. Why didn’t Hudid say anything? Why did he just soar into the sky, leaving the pierced sorcerer behind?

The elder hyung of the black cranes urgently shouted, “Protect Guardian Deity-nim! Protect Guardian Deity-nim! Paaaiii—!”

The flapping of the black crane paleos, flying towards Rubini, came to a halt. Protect the Guardian Deity? What did that even mean?

“—The sorcerer is still alive!”

With the eldest black crane’s cry, Leeha who was ‘pinned’ to Hudid’s beak, finally spoke, “What do you mean? Jellypong! Hold onto his beak tightly, and then throw me!”

It turned out that Leeha was not pierced by the beak. It was an optical illusion from the side that made it seem like the beak was piercing him.

Realizing that Hudid couldn’t open his mouth anymore due to Jellypong’s arm securely wrapped around Hudid under the lower back, preventing him from speaking.


『Mongmongmongmong-!』

And now, Jellypong had completely separated from Leeha. Hudid’s blue hair and Leeha’s eyes briefly met as Hudid soared into the sky. Despite Hudid’s massive wing beats couldn’t stop Leeha. As they brushed past each other in mid-air, Leeha focused on one final thing: the last opportunity at this distance. With no time to reload the magazine now, this was his last stand!

“Now, get back to your senses, Hudid!”

Hudid tried to turn his head and neck towards Leeha, but the sticky substance wrapped around his beak delayed his reaction. Seizing this moment, Leeha had the chance to ‘stab.’

Leeha used both hands to grasp Black Bass tightly, aiming at the junction of Hudid’s neck and torso.

『Bayonet Charge』!”

Black Bass’s tip created a mana knife. Beneath the gun barrel, where the mana knife protruded in a bluish hue, there was something there—the very thing that might evoke an eerie laugher from Bluebeard, his hat.

Whoosh…!

The Mana Gunblade pierced through Bluebeard’s hat, tearing it apart. The hat, which boasted an even deeper darkness than Bluebeard’s ominous aura, began transforming into dust.

Shaaaaai—–!

Then, it evaporated, disappearing completely.

For a brief moment, Hudid’s eyeballs flickered, but neither paleos nor Leeha saw it. A burst of white light exploded from Leeha’s body as she descended to the ground.

『You have completed the quest 『Wake up, my friend』.』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with tkn mystical creature Aibex.』

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with paleos- Red Goat.』

Wham—!

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with the mystical creature Hudid.』

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with paleos—Black Crane.』

Wham—!

A continuous barrage of achievement pop-ups and system notifications cluttered Leeha’s vision. However, none of it registered in his eyes at the moment. A resounding joy for completing the quest!

Yet, even that overwhelming joy was obliterated by a terrifying fear!

“Uwaaaa! Help, Jellypoooooong—!”

『MongMongMong—!』

Shwaaaaak-!

Jellypong, which had still been tightly bound by Hudid’s beak, wriggled free with a swish and leaped. However, there was still a considerable distance between it and Leeha, who was already starting to fall.

Hudid was flying higher than the top of Redwood, at least 150m above the ground if measured from the height of the ground!

“This—crazy—”

As Leeha descended with his back and butt toward the ground, Jellypong’s urgent expression was visible to him. The fact that the normally smiling spirit of Meta-Water was making such a face alone made Leeha imagine a terrifying scenario.

“Ha Leeha-nim!”

Rubini shouted too, but there was nothing she could do. Without Hyein, there was no one in the space to catch Leeha.

“Damn it! I can’t die after completing the quest!”

Leeha flipped in mid-air. As soon as he flipped, what he saw was the top of Redwood. The gigantic forest seemed to be reaching out to catch him.

Shuwaahai——–!

The speed cutting through the wind had already surpassed imagination.

To catch? If he were to collide with those thick tree trunks, it would be as if the logout itself was catching him.

“Sorry to call you out only at a time like this, but in the end, I have to prepare for the drop.”

Leeha had to buy time in the air, receiving minimal damage, to secure the opportunity for Jellypong to cover him again! There were not many choices for that method.

“Soul Link! Please, Koma! Force Barrier!”

Paahat-!

As soon as a red light flashed before Leeha’s eyes, he clung to Koma’s soft fur.

“Kku, kkuung?”

“Stay alive! By any means necessary!”

“Kkuueee, uueeeeee——!”

Koma struggled, with Leeha on its back. Now, at the point where the Redwood trees began to come into view, Koma, as if grinding on a sandpaper, embraced a Redwood tree.

Gwa, gwa, gwa, gwa—The sound of Koma’s huge claws tearing at the tree and its scream, attempting to counteract an enormous gravitational acceleration, echoed through the Redwood forest.

The shock was transmitted to Leeha even though Koma acted as a buffer. Despite using Koma as a cushion, the Force Barrier flashed, flickered several times, and then disappeared.

If it were only his body, Leeha would have turned gray by now. Platinum Shield? It couldn’t be used. If it could have been used, Leeha would have used it immediately when attacked by Hudid. In other words, there was no way for Leeha to pass on the damage any longer.

Koma, as if crushing a Redwood into a powder, grabbed it with its hands and claws, and with each thud, thud of impact, Leeha’s vision was turning crimson.

“Uh, uuaa! When on earth will we reach the ground!? I can’t take it anymore-”

『Mongmongmong-!』

“-Jellypong!”

Shwaaak…!

Jellypong’s squishy body enveloped Leeha and Koma. Even after that, Koma’s hands and claws suffered a bit more.

Koma, carrying Leeha on his back and Jellypong wrapped on his hands and feet stopped at a point 35m above the ground. They had descended more than 60m from the peak of the Redwood.

“Koma! Are you okay?”

“Kkuueee, kkuung, kkuueeeng.”

“Just wait, potions are coming-”

Koma was hanging limply, crying. Even though it hadn’t transformed into a fire bear, the smoke rising from its claws made one wonder how hot it had been.

Leeha quickly searched his bag and shoved a health potion into Koma’s mouth, and he haphazardly sprinkled potions on its hands and claws.

(To be continued…)
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 “Shwaaak…!”

Rubini kneeled down beside Leeha, appearing in a flash of vermilion light. Treading precariously on the branches, she immediately reached out to Leeha.

“Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Rubini-nim! Why didn’t you leave-”

“-Euk?!”

“Kkak!”

“Kuoooooo!”

『Mongmongmong…』

And just as Leeha was about to grab her with joy, a roar echoed throughout the entire Redwood, shaking it as if a giant beast had roared.

Koma instinctively let out a trembling cry, not a scream of pain. It wasn’t a scream filled with agony.

This bastard—- how dare you—!

It was a cry filled with so much anger that it couldn’t contain.

“Hudid…”

“Yes. It seems like he retained the memory before his mind was tainted.”

Rubini anxiously looked up at the sky, but Leeha felt more relieved. Knowing what he did, it was expected for him to be furious.

When Leeha and the group, including Koma, finally stood on the ground, the black cranes and Hudid, started to flutter down with their wings.

There was no change in their appearance.

Hudid still had a body adorned with red marks, a fiery blue head, and only one leg.

“… Are we safe now?”

“Yes?”


“Now that I think about it, I…”

Didn’t Leeha blow off the toes of Hudid’s leg? Leeha was worried for a moment if they were really safe.

With the ominous possibility that Hudid and the black cranes might try to kill him(?), Leeha whispered to his imprisoned comrades in the red goat paleos.

Leeha: Mission complete! Please prepare mana relay towers as soon as we return!

“Ugh!”

“What happened?”

“Ah, nothing. It’s just that suddenly too many whispers came in.”

Leeha blocked his ears and frowned for a moment. Meanwhile, the black cranes completely surrounded Leeha and Rubini, and in the midst of them, Hudid landed slowly.

Leeha couldn’t tell if he was uneasy because he had been riding on Koma’s back or if it was due to his remorse for Koma. Probably both.

“Are you a human?”

“Yes. We are a species from another continent across the sea, looking to deal with Bluebeard Le that crossed over. I came at the request of Aibex-nim.”

Hudid was enormous. Each time he opened his massive beak, Leeha flinched. The plan to wedge the huge beak under his armpits and use Jellypong to bind it felt reckless, especially now that he realized the beak could open wide enough to make him uncomfortable.

Rubini kneeled behind Leeha, and her hand tightened, probably around the time when he began to feel the plan was too audacious.

“Um, well, about the toe incident, I apologize. By any chance, is there a way for it to regrow or something? If you’re okay with it, we have an incredible healer on our side… Shall I introduce you?”

Of course, the force applied to Rubini’s hand was clearly intended to prevent Leeha’s rambling. Hudid’s beak opened widely, and what followed might be close to laughter. The wind ruffled through Leeha and Rubini’s hair. When Rubini’s body trembled, Leeha smiled and spoke to her.

***

“Are you okay?”

“Well, this is my first time…”

“You can feel at ease. Just think of it as riding a patrol plane〜.”

“Is Ha Leeha-nim used to this?”


“Well, it’s better than being held by Jin Gonggong-ssi’s eagle talons. Um, Bailephus’s back was definitely more reassuring. Ah, compared to when I hung onto the ‘beak’ earlier, this is heaven.”

Leeha chuckled, and Rubini looked momentarily puzzled.

Of course, Leeha couldn’t see her eyes, so he could only guess from the movement of her mouth.

“How dare you chatter on the back of guardian deity-nim, a sor- no, a human!”

“Oh, it’s nothing!”

Leeha replied with a shout.

The surrounding paleos still looked displeased as they glanced at Leeha and Rubini, but Leeha thought it was understandable.

‘We are sitting on the back of their guardian deity, so they can’t help but be annoyed.’

The large black crane paleos, the eldest, flew towards Leeha and Rubini, who were sitting on Hudid’s back and made a sound. As it flew away, Leeha pouted.

“I have the achievement and the intimacy is at 100%, and yet still so prickly.”

“Huh, to them, having a ‘guardian deity’ is that important. Ah, by the way, I haven’t thanked you yet.”

“Thanks?”

“The quest. I also leveled up by one. I got an achievement too.”

“Oh, oh! Congratulations! Thank God. Hehe, right. We practically became the first achievement holders in this ‘New Continent.'”

Rubini sounded a bit apologetic, but Leeha didn’t care.

Ultimately, Leeha was the one who removed Bluebeard’s hat, but Rubini’s role in helping him reach there and assisting in its removal was not insignificant.

『Achievement: Red Wood’s Red Goat (A-)』

Congratulations! You have successfully gained complete intimacy with Aibex and his paleos on the Erika Continent. Your outstanding achievement of fostering trust with the spirits in a continent with scarce interaction among paleos will be widely known. Reward: Strength +10, agility +6, erika Continent Continental Reputation +20

You are the first registrant for the achievement 『Red Wood’s Red Goat.』 The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: Strength +20, agility +12, erika Continent Common Fame +40


『Achievement: Red Wood’s black crane (A-)』

Congratulations! You have successfully gained complete intimacy with Hudid and his paleos on the Erika Continent. Your outstanding achievement of fostering trust with the spirits in a continent with scarce interaction among paleos will be widely known. Reward: Strength +3, agility +13, erica Continent Continental Reputation +20

You are the first registrant for the achievement 『Red Wood’s black crane.』 The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: Strength +6, agility +26, erika Continent Continental Reputation +40

Leeha chuckled as he looked at the achievement window. Rubini would likely be recorded as the ‘second registrant.’

‘With the opening of the Erika Continent, it makes sense that the ‘Continental Reputation’ I have accumulated so far will be split into two… Erika Continent now requires only fame specific to it. The nearly 9,000 Common Fame Leeha accumulated on the previous continent will have no effect here.

However, in this primitive land where even the concept of ‘human’ is unknown to the paleos, this was only natural.

Even though the reward for achieving an A-rank achievement was only 20 points of Continental Reputation, it made sense. The description of the achievement hinted at it.

‘There is limited interaction between paleos. Even if a name is well-known in one place, spreading it to another is difficult. I vaguely knew this from interacting with Aibex, but in the Erika Continent, there are evidently more mystical creatures and paleos, making it harder for a name to spread.’

The structure of future achievements’ names would likely be clear, combining the ‘region names’ of the mystical creatures and paleos living in the new continent with their ‘animalistic base.’

‘Ah! Speaking of which, my level… Character window!’

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 190 (0%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 113

HP: 6,360 (4,452)

MP: 1,550 Stats: Strength 373 (+288)

Agility 2,959 (+1,017)

Intelligence 160 (+109)

Vitality 228 (+135)

Mind 65 (+55)

Remaining Stat Points: 40

‘Hehehe… Finally reached level 190.’ Only 10 levels remained until the coveted 200. After arriving in the new continent, Leeha gained six levels, reaching 189. Completing the quest just now pushed him to level 190.

Of course, amid the level-ups, Leeha’s handling of stats remained somewhat unrefined, but he felt overflowing with confidence.

‘With the change in the 10-level units, I gained a bonus of 5 points… Well, nothing to see here. Let’s max out Agility!’

Leeha invested points into Agility. From 2,959, an additional 40 points made Leeha’s smirk involuntarily rise.

“Why are you laughing?”

‘Oh, well, hehe, heh-heh-heh… Now my Agility is an impressive 2,999! How absurd would it be for Rubini and other players to know this fact? If I had a stat level of 3,000, I would no longer be a subject for discussion as to whether I’m an expert or not. It’s a high stat level that requires consideration of whether I’m a ranker or not. However, the subject is only a user who hasn’t even reached level 190!’

“What’s so amusing?”

“Oh, Hudid-nim.”

“We’re about to arrive; get ready. I have a lot to talk about with Aibex.”

“Of course. If the red goat paleos see me and Rubini-nim riding on Hudid-nim’s back-”

“Riding?”

Hudid’s voice sank. Perhaps carrying a human was something he disliked. Leeha hastily corrected himself.

“Oh, no, not riding-”

“If you don’t want to ride, just keep your face quiet.”

“Got it!”

Whoosh!

Flames rose from Hudid’s head. Leeha could now truly appreciate the abilities of the mystical creatures.

‘The one who generates fire: Hudid… and the one who prevents fire: Aibex.’

What other abilities did other spirits and paleos possess?

“Black crane! The goat guys have spotted us!”

“Oh! I’ll shake my hands; just a moment-”

When the large black crane paleo reported, Leeha crawled, gripping the feather on Hudid’s back, and waved his arms vigorously.

Every time the feather was pinched, Hudid’s eyes squinted, and the large black crane paleo glared at Leeha and Rubini as if they were about to be killed. Rubini was the only one who knew this.

“The goats are coming down the tree! No signs of attack!”

“Good. Let’s get ready to land.”

“Black crane!”

Hudid and the black crane paleos’ altitude gradually decreased. At this point, they were near the Redwood’s red goat gathering, and Leeha was busy looking for a candidate location for the Mana Relay Tower’s construction.

Aibex and the red goat paleos were already gathered in the village square. It was natural for the black crane paleos to be on various Redwood trees to be ready to suppress any disturbance they might cause.

In this critical situation, Leeha replaced the magazine of the Black Bass. Given the unpredictability of the situation, they might need to move again.

Shuuuu…!

Finally, Hudid’s leg touched the ground. Leeha and Rubini quickly jumped off his back. The black crane paleos landed beside Hudid, ready for any confrontation with the surrounding red goat paleos.

“Aibex.”

“Hudid.”

The gazes of the two spirits collided in the air. Leeha could once again feel the enormity and intimidation of the mystical creatures.

“They are huge. If both of them use skills from this distance, it’ll be chaos.”

After this exchange, Hudid and Aibex remained silent. The flames erupted from Hudid’s head.

Phwsuuuuuuu…!

However, the flames soon extinguished. It happened right after a flash of light from Aibex’s horn.

The two spirits showcased their respective skills! Someone gulped nervously, but there was nothing to worry about. Hudid bowed his head towards Aibex after witnessing her skill.

“Forgive me.”

Supporting himself with his only leg, Hudid’s long neck gracefully lowered towards the ground. The black crane paleos, who considered him their guardian, flinched.

(To be continued…)
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 “Can a guardian deity behave so recklessly?’

They wondered if Hudid didn’t care about his dignity. However, they didn’t know. Acknowledging one’s mistakes and reflecting on them was precisely the dignity a “parent” should demonstrate. As a guardian deity of the tribe and, at the same time, a “parent” who shares strength with all the paleos, Hudid has performed this role splendidly.

“Did you know that you were out of your mind? Trying to burn all of Red Wood, I thought you were undoubtedly insane.”

“That bastard I don’t mind chewing did something foolish when I let my guard down.”

“With no teeth, how would you have chewed him? You could only peck him to death with your beak.”

Aibex chuckled, baring his teeth, and then abruptly stopped, and looked at Leeha.

“Human – Ha Leeha.”

“Yes, yes.”

Step, step, step.

Aibex approached Leeha. With each hoof touching the ground, his magnificent tail swayed in the air.

“I sincerely thank you for your efforts for Red Wood.”

Then, he stood in front of Leeha and bowed his head. The massive horns came close to Leeha’s face, momentarily surprising him. However, observing even all the surrounding red goat paleos bowing their heads, Leeha maintained a composed demeanor.

“I can’t afford to look foolish at a moment like this! There are things to be said.”

Seeing Aibex in this situation, Leeha smiled.

“You’re welcome. Beyond the sea, to humans, Bluebeard Le is our common enemy. I’ve only done what’s necessary for the peace and happiness of Erika Continent and the harmony of Red Wood.”

Lower oneself, but raise the status of ‘human’. Aibex and Hudid seemed pleased and satisfied.

“Eldest!”

“red goat!”

“Hurry and get our guests from the shabby place!”

“Aibex-nim!”


“You did not betray our trust, Ha Leeha. We will keep all the promises we made to you.”

“Thank you!”

As Leeha greeted Aibex, Rubini firmly grabbed Leeha’s arm. Without being surprised by the touch, aibex opened his mouth again.

“Ah, eldest?! And prepare.”

“red goat! What are you talking about?”

“Make tonight the best festival in Red Wood!”

“…red goat! Understood, my lord!”

“We can’t lose either. Eldest! Hand over what you brought.”

“Black crane!”

At Hudid’s command, including their eldest, the black crane paleos took out various items. The Redwood’s unique products, unseen on the old continent, stimulated Leeha’s nose.

Just as the preparations of the red goat paleos and Black Doo Lumi paleos were about to begin in earnest, a group of people poured out from the building where the prison was.

“Leeha-ssi! You really succeed-”

“Oppa!”

“-not this time!”

“Ugh, don’t interfere, ahjumma.”

“Ahjumma? 『Attack-”

『Ice Blast-”

Shin Nara, rushed towards Leeha, and Ram Hwajung, who was trying to hug Leeha faster than her, was once again being held back by Shin Nara!

“Uh, uh, uh! Wha, what are you doing? Suddenly using skills here! Stop! Stop!”

Watching Leeha, who was running out to stop the noisy Shin Nara and Ram Hwajung, the members of the expedition to the new continent were all smiling with amusement.


“Alright, alright! But it’s still a festival! As planned earlier, let’s start preparing for the mana relay tower installation! Hyein-ssi!”

“Phew, understood. I also wanted to try the new continent’s cuisine…”

“You can have it anytime. Bailephus-nim! And everyone else, come on, come on!”

Finally, the new continent, erica, was truly connecting to the old continent.

“Leeha! Hey!”

“Ung… mom.”

“Get up! Eat and sleep!”

“Later… I’ll eat later.”

“No, you can’t. Lately, you’ve been sticking to that machine without proper eating or rest… You’ll hurt your body. Get up quickly.”

Leeha knew that his mother’s nagging was a manifestation of deep love expressed outwardly. However, when truly exhausted, all he can think about is sleep.

“Come to think of it, mom always wakes me up to feed me and tries to put me back to sleep afterward.”

But that’s not an easy task, as once he ate, all thoughts of staying awake vanished. Despite knowing this, Leeha couldn’t afford to worry her mother any further.

“I got it, I got it. I’ll get up.”

In the end, from the perspective of a son, he had no choice but to get up with a wry smile. His mother supported him into a wheelchair.

He thought he could rest a bit upon arriving on the new continent, but since the incident with Aibex and Hudid, Leeha hasn’t slept well. 

‘Now that everything is finally over, I can get some sleep’, he thought, but it’s been about two days in Middle Earth. It’s been around ten hours in the new continent.

The current time is 9 AM. Around 6 or 7 PM would mark two days passing in Middle Earth. By then, the mana relay tower should be completed.

Due to the massive deaths of the giant NPC workers, the construction period was delayed in the “buoy”, but in the new continent, it could be expedited.

“Paleos are truly amazing.”

Transformed into red goats and black cranes, they carried materials at an incredible speed and strength. The competitive spirit among the giant NPCs was also pushing them to move faster.


‘In the meantime, it was hilarious to see the Barbarian Warrior Hero’s descendant Bantal and the Amunsan Trio getting excited together. In the end, even Jin Gonggong joined in the excitement, raising the atmosphere to its peak. Despite being users, they took pride in being part of the “Giant Race.”

Hooray! We can’t lose to the beasts! Thinking of them jumping around, Leeha chuckled warmly.

“What’s making you so happy?”

“Oh, nothing. I just have some free time after a long while.”

“Really? You have free time?”

Leeha’s mother smiled brightly. It wasn’t just a mother’s joy at her son being able to rest; there was something more to it.

“Then, can you go out with me today? You said you had time.”

“Today? Where are we going?”

“He, he?! Did you really forget?”

What was she talking about? Leeha quickly turned his head, seeing his mother’s disappointed expression. Did they agree to go somewhere together?

‘Shopping? Eating out? No, it can’t be that. This early in the morning— Not a picnic either— Ah!’

Finally, a word came to mind. Why his mother had been waiting without going to work since early morning?

“I couldn’t have forgotten. Today is the day we go to Budo Mountain.”

“Yeah, yeah. You said you would come if you had time.”

Looking at his mother’s bright smile like a young girl, Leeha couldn’t help but force a smile. Eat and go back to sleep? He had suspected from the start that it would be impossible.

“Oh, mom.”

“Yeah?”

Anyway, there’s still some time left for the Mana Relay Tower to be completed. Spending a day leisurely with his mother as a date wouldn’t be a bad idea.

“Should we call Kijung too? He should have time today.”

If only one more helper is added.

“Kijung…? Are you mad?”

Kijung only responded with the sound of pushing Leeha’s wheelchair, not answering.

“Kijung? The guild master of Byulcho?”

Kiiik… kiiik…

Leeha’s mother was waiting a bit away with Kijung and Leeha, waiting for a large wheelchair-accessible taxi.

Under the determination to go see the real estate, Leeha, and his mother quickly prepared.

Thinking about how urgently Kijung must have rushed to meet the two, Leeha couldn’t easily smile.

“Hey, hey. Don’t—there, stop! Actually, there’s something to talk about, so I called you.”

“Ung-ah… really, do you know you’re overdoing it?”

Kijung, with unkempt hair, as he hadn’t even washed, lowered his voice. Leeha had enough sympathy to flinch.

“I’ve been waiting to log out and rest, too. Even when rotating in the prison, I—”

“Okay, okay. Thanks. I don’t know why I didn’t know. So, I prepared to take a proper break, so let out your anger.”

“What kind of break is this? Today, too, I’ve been dragged around by this aunt and hyung—”

“Hongkong. About 17 days later. I’ve prepared airplane tickets.”

“-Taking a breath- Huh? What?”

Kijung’s voice, which seemed like it could shoot a machine gun, abruptly stopped. Calling Kijung wasn’t just to make him a helper. It was actually the main purpose to talk about the email from Ram Hwayeon.

“By the way, pushing the wheelchair a bit would be good.”

A large wheelchair-accessible taxi arrived, and Leeha’s mother called the two.

“Hurry, get in! It’s getting late.”

“Let’s go, Kijung.”

“Oh, yeah. Sure. But why Hong Kong? How did you prepare the flight tickets?”

“Well, I’ll tell you slowly about that. Anyway, don’t worry and adjust your schedule well.”

“Hong Kong? Haha, hong Kong? It’s strange that hyung suddenly goes on an overseas trip. And it’s not even a resort, but the shopping mecca, hong Kong? Are you planning to buy me luxury goods or something—”

Drook, drook.

Kijung, boarding Leeha into the taxi, unfolded his imagination. Then suddenly, his words stopped.

“… Wait. Hong Kong?”

It was only when the taxi was about to depart that Kijung sensed something suspicious.

Why Hong Kong?

What could be the reason for Leeha to choose Hong Kong?

“Cough, well, I’ll tell you later. Let’s go for now.”

“Hyung, don’t tell me… it’s not that?”

“What? What?”

“… It’s not?”

Kijung’s eyes gleamed.

If it weren’t for the recent incident at Incheon Airport, he might have just smiled and been happy. But now, he had experienced something he hadn’t before.

The most powerful sisters in history, currently in Hong Kong, had come to Korea to see Leeha. What would be the next turn of events?

“You are taking me to Hong Kong to see the Ram sisters. It’s not like you’re trying to ‘tie me in’, right?”

“What are you talking about? I don’t understand. Anyway, it’s in 17 days. Ah! Mom, where is the store?”

Leeha quickly spoke to his mother.

As a tanker, he couldn’t be dull. Understanding the atmosphere was essential to manage the aggro of monsters!

“Haaa… eong-ah…

”

Kijung, who noticed everything, sighed. Leeha felt sorry and embarrassed about the whole situation.

“To be precise, it was an invitation from their side. Your name was also on it. Why would I treat you like I’m ‘squeezing you in’?”

“Ram Hwayeon invited me?”

“Yeah. I can’t even understand the reason—”

“Son! Son! How is it? Huh? Is it good here? Kijung, what do you think?”

Even after arriving at the scene, Leeha couldn’t escape the scrutiny of Kijung.

Of course, Leeha’s mother was so immersed in real estate that she couldn’t care less about whether her son was being treated that way or not.

“Oh, it’s nice here. There are many companies nearby, so lunchtime must be quite busy, right?”

“Yeah, your son has good taste. You saw it correctly.”

As Leeha nodded vaguely, the man next to his mother raised his thumb and winked.

Leeha vaguely remembered the business card he had received from his mother some time ago.

“What is currently being auctioned can be considered your mother’s good fortune. If you tried to buy it outright, they would have demanded at least 100 million just for the rights. Of course, acquiring something like that through an auction is never an easy task.”

“President Lee Soobaek, you can make it happen, right?”

“Of course. If it’s for the chance to eat a delicious lunch made by your mother, I would even run barefoot. Ah! Now, we should call you not ‘Mother’ but ‘Madam’, right?!”

“Oh dear, ‘Madam’! Please don’t. What are you talking about already…?”

Leeha’s mother laughed awkwardly but didn’t seem to dislike it. Leeha carefully observed the man next to his mother.

‘He gives off a bit of a conman vibe… But the item itself seems to be good…’

While engaged in conversation with Kijung, Leeha didn’t neglect to check things precariously.

On the way to the restaurant, observing the surroundings and what is commonly referred to as ‘location’, Leeha continued to scrutinize the situation. Whether the man was conscious of the attention directed towards him or not, he subtly initiated a conversation with Leeha.

“The basics of real estate lie in the location and people. It seems like you’re quite interested in real estate, sir?”

“Oh, no. I don’t know much about real estate… If you mean ‘location’, I might have a general idea of what it means.”

“In sniping, the most crucial thing is also the location.”

Determining the sniper’s position. Once decided, it’s not easy to move, which is analogous to the nature of real estate. (To be continued…)
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 “Oh… sniping?!”

“Yes. Lee Soobaek-ssi knows it as well, right? Sniping.”

Leeha raised his hand in the air, assuming a sniper’s aiming posture. If shadowboxing is boxing in the air, what would be the term for Leeha’s actions – shadow sniping?

The shadow boxing of an elite boxer is said to be visible to third parties as if they were facing an ‘imaginary opponent.’ The same applied to elite snipers.

Leeha’s aiming posture in the air, refined through thousands, even tens of thousands of repetitions, was impeccable.

Gulp. The man felt as if the muzzle was aimed directly at him. The moment Leeha’s trigger finger moved, the threat of the bullet, faster than sound, would pierce through his body.

“Wait, wait! Oh, sorry. Our son has been a sniper in the military for a long time…”

“Ouch! Don’t hit me, mom!”

The impasse was broken by Leeha’s mother. After giving Leeha a light smack on the back, the man’s gaze finally returned to normal, as if nothing had happened.

Sensing the change, Leeha approached, wheeling his wheelchair and extending his hand.

“Haha, what’s this? Please take care of it, President Lee Soobaek-nim.”

“Oh, um… Yes. Of course. Don’t worry and leave it to me.”

At least Kijung, who was by his side, could feel that there was no chance of being deceived.

The contract was drawn up on the same day. Unlike the usual auction contracts, it was a contract that not only guaranteed a 100% successful bid but also included a radical condition of refunding the earnest money in case of failure.

The success fee was only 80% of the industry norm, so it was clear that the man appreciated his mother’s cooking skills.

Otherwise, he wouldn’t be able to justify showing his employees a contract with absolutely unacceptable conditions.

“Bidding – Ketam, sorry. Suddenly, my voice suddenly cracked. The bid is in seven days, and after the bid, I’ll assist with various court-related procedures and licenses. In the meantime, you need to take care of the interior, including opening preparations. If you need a design firm, I’ll connect you directly. I have friends who can do clean interior work without hiring a separate team. But still, you know you’ll have to take care of some things personally, right?”

“Of course! I can’t leave that to Lee Soobaek-ssi. The restaurant is my specialty.”

Leeha’s mother proudly declared. Looking at her shoulders squared and confident expression, he felt a sense of pride.

He could understand how his mother, who finally fulfilled her dream of having her own store, must be feeling.


‘No, wait for a while. Opening preparations? Can’t we go to Hong Kong for a fun trip together?’

Unfortunately, he realized belatedly that due to the timing, he couldn’t go on a fun trip with his mother.

On the way back home, he tried to bring up the topic, but his mother refused as expected.

She said they could go on a trip anytime later, and what mattered now was not that, but she was already immersed in interior discussions, making all sorts of imaginations. He couldn’t persuade her any further.

Although he was disappointed that they couldn’t go to Hong Kong together, seeing his mother happy, all he could do was smile proudly.

“Kijung.”

“Hmm?”

“Thank you.”

“For what?”

Kijung tilted his head, but Leeha didn’t continue speaking. He was thankful to Middle Earth for creating this situation, and I was thankful to Kijung for guiding him into the world of Middle Earth.

The time of arrival at home was 5 PM, and it was soon time for the completion of the construction of the Mana Relay Tower.

“Now, before connecting〜”

Leeha moved his wheelchair and headed towards the computer.

It had been a few days since the Erika Continent was updated on the Middle Earth official website, but there was still no information related to it.

“That’s to be expected.”

The only revealed area on the map, painted pitch-black and with unknown size and appearance of the continent, was the small area on the left edge, ‘Redwood.’

Since updates to the map would only happen when users explored and publicly disclosed information, this was only natural.

Users had to endure staring at the map of the new continent, where nothing was revealed about what items were there, what NPCs existed, or what monsters were present.

The frustration of users who had to look at the map of the new continent without any information on anything was growing day by day.

There was no difference in the fact that this was the largest community that I was observing.


『Title: Alexander and Lee Jiwon, trash Personalities =«=| Keeping the Good Things for Themselves』

『Title: So what about the new continent? How is it?』

『Title: LRe: Should I tell you?』

『Title: L LRe: Don’t go into the ransomware, ah』 『Title: LLI_Re: It’s not ransom, really. My acquaintance is a member of the new continent expedition.』 『Title: New continent expedition members, anyone there? Not even a word mentioned.』

 『Title: ★Advertisement★ When the new continent opens, let’s share information. Open chat room』

『Title: But what about those who can’t even reach level 200? Why

 are they talking about the new continent? Ridiculous.』

『Title: LRe: 〇ieo』

『Title: New dragon lair discovered in the northern part of Shazrashian!』

The new continent has been revealed, but the method of getting there has not been disclosed.

Rumors, including unverified stories about some players in the Old Continent building ships in Kraven, have piled up like a mountain.

As one person’s speculative statement crossed their lips, it turned into a confirmed fact. The resulting misunderstandings, spreading like wildfire, were exponentially increasing.

Despite the gathering of many people, there was no one with accurate information about the new continent in the early stages. No matter how many people gathered, there seemed to be no possibility of anything other than rumors and blame.

“Well, getting cursed seems to be in the order of fame. Alexander cursing takes up more than half of the page.”

Top 10 rankers, including Lee Jiwon, were receiving a barrage of curses. While information monopoly had been taken for granted in Middle Earth so far, was the new continent intolerable in that regard?

Leeha felt a renewed sense of relief. 

‘If they find out I went to the Dragon Palace alone… Besides, what about the chaos with the paleos? If users know about that, they might wait in front of my house demanding information.’

Feeling eerie, Leeha clicked on the most trustworthy post in the community, releasing his pent-up emotions.

Title: L L LRe: It’s not ransom, really. My acquaintance is a member of the New Continent expedition.

The current method to go to the new continent is by sailing. That’s correct. But now there’s going to be a change. They say they’re installing something so that spatial teleportation will be possible. There were mermaids and NPCs that could transform into animals. And they are helping with the towers being built.


“What spatial teleportation? Going by teleport?”

“L00 It’s going to be like that soon. I heard that members of the new continent expedition are building some tower.”

“Total nonsense. 1_1_ Don’t you know that the timber prices in Kraven have skyrocketed 20 times? =» You have to take a ship for sure, not joking right now. Instead of talking nonsense, go buy wood. It will at least increase 100 times ᄏ ᄏ ᄏ”

“L=I =I =1 =I This is eo. The guy who wrote this is messing with timber prices. Let’s go!!!”

“L LTalking to these crazy idiots is useless.”

“一 Lqqq Yeah〜 Caught you, huh? Getting mad, huh? =1=1=1 Reporting as a price manipulation rumor.”

“ᄂDamn, you idiot.”

“1_ᄂNo, isn’t the guy who wrote this comment a timber merchant? These days, even the forces are doing comment manipulation.”

“Huh? Do you really have an acquaintance?”

The content of the main text was short. No specific evidence, no witnesses, just claims on an internet community. However, Leeha could tell that the content was correct.

Talking about mermaids related to the ‘sea’ might be thrown out vaguely, but the part related to paleos, especially the information that paleos were helping with the construction of the Mana Relay Tower, was truly cutting-edge information.

Knowing even a bit about something that one wouldn’t know without being a member of the New Continent expedition was something to be considered as having a real acquaintance.

But what to do if you speak the truth?

The sadness of the internet is that there is no one to believe.

Moreover, each piece of information related to the new continent was affecting the prices of various items in the Old Continent, making Middle Earth’s gold almost equivalent to real money! It was natural that users were attentive to it.

“There’s no separate Asura Plaza. Other than the fact that dragons appear frequently in the Old Continent, there doesn’t seem to be anything special. No, it’s not that they appear frequently; it might be that the level of users has risen, and they are participating in more raids.”

A post about the discovery of a white dragon Rare in the northern part of Shazrashian had raid applicants lining up.

Of course, it would be necessary to judge whether this was reliable information, but it was a fact that there were many posts related to dragons.

“Last time there was some green dragon Lair in Minis… Hm.”

With the Gold Dragon Bailephus by his side and the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn as his ‘partner’, even so, when it came to ‘dragons’, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was the first to come to mind for Leeha.

“Did users discover the lair… or did the dragons reveal the lairs themselves? I can’t answer that right away.”

Unable to get an immediate answer, Leeha quickly logged into Middle Earth, collecting various information and recent ‘gossip’ that was needed for about an hour.

It was 6 PM.

“Ugh!”

As the feeling of descending in the empty air made his muscles tense up, Leeha found himself standing on the ground of Middle Earth without realizing it.

“I’ve logged in over a few hundred times, but it’s still scary.”

As soon as he logged in, a turquoise light flashed by his side. It was the appearance of his partner after a long time.

『Kyukyukyu! Kyukyukyu!』

“Blaugrunn-ssi, how have you been?”

Blaugrunn wagged his tail and vigorously messed up Leeha’s hair. Even through his playful actions, cheerful snorting sounds could be heard from the pouch on his vest.

“Hello, Jellypong. By the way, how are you handled when I log out?”

Similar to living beings but ultimately treated as an item, would Jellypong disappear for a while in this world? As he pondered over such questions, he heard a voice calling for him from a distance.

“Leeha-ssi! Where have you been and you only came now! I was almost going to log out and call you!”

“Oh, Nara-ssi.”

“Hurry up! We’re almost done! We just need to finish the work and then take a picture with a cutting ceremony as the last step. It’s decided that you can’t miss it.”

“Oh, really? It certainly is very high, but-”

Leeha looked in the direction Nara had come from and saw the Mana Relay Tower positioned prominently. It had an even more majestic presence than the Mana Relay Tower erected on the floating island in the middle of the Dawn Sea.

The black cranes carried materials and flew up, up, while red goats climbed the tower like crazy and received the materials, delivering them to the giants scattered around.

Hyein’s instructions even arranged them in the right places. Hyein’s command, which had suffered once at the buoy, was now more efficient and tidy than before.

“Hurry up. Everyone is waiting.”

“Oh, Nara-ssi. Uh-”

“It’s noisy, quickly, quickly!”

Nara ran, grabbing Leeha’s hand.

The strange sensation of their skin touching made Leeha’s heart flutter. Should they run quickly, given this feeling that his face might turn red? Although his heartbeat was already pounding rapidly, running here might risk his heart exploding.

‘Is Nara-ssi not embarrassed?’

Leeha couldn’t tell.

Grabbing his hand and leading the way, Leeha wondered why she didn’t look back at him. Nara couldn’t show her embarrassed, ashamed, yet excited face to Leeha.

“Uh, you’re late! Oh, Nara-ssi, why is your face like that?”

“Hush! Hush!”

“-Uh! Bobae?”

They were greeted by the members of the expedition who had already gathered.

When Kijung, who had logged in long ago and was talking to Nara, spoke, Bobae next to him covered his mouth.

“Kitkit, it’s starting. Come quickly, slowpoke.”

“But still, Ha Leeha-ssi has worked the hardest, so we should let him off from this level of work.”

“If you’re going to let him off, it would be even better to cut off his head during the cutting ceremony.”

Users who helped build the mana relay tower with their abilities and strength threw in their comments.

Biyemi, Jin Gonggong, Kidd, Luger, as well as Ram Hwajung and Lee Jiwon, fernand, Alexander, Pyro, Bantal, all had shining eyes. Rubini briefly released her hand and stared intently at Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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 Including Shin Nara, there were a total of 41 elite users, but none of them underestimated or belittled Leeha’s contributions. Especially the black crane paleos and the red goat paleos.

The reason all the NPCs here were cooperative was because Leeha had resolved quests and made promises to them. Besides the promise of providing land, Leeha, and even Rubini, achieved a 100% level of intimacy with them, helping in construction.

‘Even Rubini is captivated by him…? Well, he’s truly remarkable, practically turning all the members of the expedition into allies. What an incredible ability. I might be skilled, but someone like me who bothers with a useless tamer is of no use. Despite his considerable skill, such a foolish guy has nowhere to be useful…’

Even Chiyou had to admit. Using skills, it was impossible to eavesdrop on Leeha or influence him in any way. Her primary objective during the New Continent expedition was to bring Leeha to her side, and if that failed, the second option was to extract information from him. However, both plans ended up failing. Although she succeeded in tempting the tamer, it didn’t even catch Chiyou’s eye.

“Well, with so many eyes watching, it’s better to chase after him after the group separates. Haha, naturally, I’ll be the first to expand my influence in this New Continent. The only rival I have is Pei Wu’s Hwangryong. There’s no chance for Byulcho, dragon Knights, or anything like that.”

Despite this, she remained relaxed. Among the New Continent expedition members, she possessed her own “power”, rivaled only by Pei Wu’s Hwangryong and Byulcho’s Kijung. Although they were all part of guilds, taking proactive actions would be challenging for them.

However, from the perspective of decision-makers, Chiyou, who had the authority to act before others, was bound to lead. Yet, there was one thing Chiyou didn’t know.

What was currently happening in “Gaza City”, held by Leeha? As someone who had always been in the position of a hunter tracking prey, Chiyou found it challenging to penetrate the events that would unfold after the completion of the New Continent’s mana relay tower. Most notably, she was oblivious to the preparations Leeha was making and the ongoing events in Gaza City.

What happened after Leeha visited Gaza City? Perhaps that revelation would shock Chiyou and others. Unaware of these facts, Chiyou laughed alone, contemplating her grand dreams.

“Connection complete! Mana transmission and reception antenna connection complete!”

“Great—! Everyone, gather! Quickly! Quickly! Prepare for activation and cutting ceremony. Euh-hee-heet!”

With the report from the giant NPC, Hyein shouted enthusiastically, despite his smart image not matching the cheap laughter. However, no one could tease Hyein, given the atmosphere. All users extended the prepared ribbons, taking their positions one by one.

Led by Alexander and Fernand, nPC Burke, along with all the creatures that had contributed, lined up in front of the mana relay tower in Erika, the New Continent.

Isn’t this one of the good things about being in Middle Earth? Particularly, the absence of the need for a cameraman. Everyone could take their screenshots with their own devices.

“Did everyone release the screenshot prohibition? Don’t complain about being left out alone! Don’t think it’s a waste of a scroll; quickly take them!”

Fernand shouted in excitement.

Everyone knew the value of being part of this historic moment. From the perspective of elite users who could easily acquire anti-screenshot scrolls, none of them considered it a waste.

“Now, Alexander-ssi. If you just put this bead in…”

“It would activate, right?”

“Yes.”


Hyein handed the last item to Alexander. Bailephus also looked satisfied as he observed the mana sphere.

“A pristine crystal. There shouldn’t be any issues”, he declared, but Alexander still wore a contemplative expression.

In the end, he turned his head to gaze at someone. The attention of other users followed Alexander’s gaze.

“Ha Leeha.”

“So, when I was at that time… Me?”

Leeha, who had been chatting with Kijung, Nara, and others, was startled by Alexander’s sudden call. However, what he heard next was even more surprising.

“Will you do it? No one can deny that you’ve played the biggest role in setting up the most significant contribution here.”

“Me?!”

Leeha’s eyes widened.

However, the fact that Leeha was only one stunned, explains the journey so far.

“Real recognize real. Go, hyungnim!”

“Hahaha! That’s right. Have you seen Captain Drake’s last moments? Our Kraven’s users must agree.”

“Hehehe, what a surprise.”

“If Alexander acknowledges, I’ll follow.”

Lee Jiwon, holding a sword, hook, and even Petyr, all nodded in agreement.

“Indeed, his skill is undeniable… I won’t forget having my head blown off.”

“Uh, hey, next time, would you like to go on a raid with my summoned creatures?”

“I believe there is no one among us who doesn’t acknowledge Ha Leeha-nim’s great contribution.”

“The same goes for us Taoist brothers. Since Pei Wu-nim acknowledges it, it’s settled.”

Saint Rafaella, summoner Elmi, Pei Wu, taoist Baeju, and Taoist Mu all pushed forward, acknowledging Leeha’s leadership.


“Well, still – since Alexander is the leader of the New Continent Expedition -”

“I know. Isn’t the leader supposed to take responsibility? I, Alexander, will bear any criticism for the significance of Ha Leeha’s conclusion to the main members.”

Alexander was serious.

Even though Leeha knew Alexander was role-playing, his voice was so heavy that it sounded true. In turn, Leeha’s expression became equally serious.

To conclude this moment, to build the end of a long journey of more than 120 days in the time of Middle Earth with one’s own hands!

“Well, um… there’s still something! Fernand-nim! Yeah, from the beginning, this quest was originally with Fernand-nim in Fibiel-”

“Hum, Ha Leeha.”

The last person, the Pioneer King Fernand. The one who started the New Continent quest and the user who laid the groundwork for the current gathering of players. A master with no rivals in exploration and adventure.

“Yes?”

“Quick.”

Fernand, who could garner the consent of all members of the New Continent Expedition, was a person qualified to conclude this journey.

“If it weren’t for Ha Leeha-ssi, the current team might not have been formed. Come quickly.”

Even Fernand called for Leeha. In a situation where everyone is gathered, refusing would be disrespectful. Eventually, Leeha walked towards the center. Kijung and Biyemi whistled and teased, and Hyein chuckled silently.

“The person in the center doesn’t really suit well.”

When Kidd mumbled, Leeha was already in the center. Left Alexander, right Fernand, the most luxurious position among the three. Leeha received the mana bead from Alexander and prepared it carefully.

“Now, now! When Ha Leeha puts in the mana bead, it will sparkle! Capture the screenshot timing on your own! Let’s count! One, two…”

Fernand started counting.

One, two… and the final moment. All members of the New Continent Expedition shouted like victory cries.

Thr-e-e-eee!

Leeha inserted the mana bead into its place.


What followed was not a simple sparkle.

An alert window that made the entire Middle Earth lively appeared in front of the eyes of all users logged in.

『Congratulations, everyone! The New Continent Expedition members have successfully completed all missions!』

『As of now, the mana of the Lope Continent and Erika Continent is synchronized.』

『All members of the New Continent Expedition are free to travel between the Lope Continent and Erika Continent.』

『Time remaining until the creation of the Warp Gate: Up to a maximum of 5 days』

『After the creation of the Warp Gate through the combination of the gate, teleportation from the Lope Continent to the Erika Continent will be possible.』

The notification window spread across the entire Middle Earth, and the members of the New Continent Expedition also attentively read it.

“Wow, a Warp Gate?!”

“What is this? I got a quest too. It says, ‘Come to the New Continent with two members of the Warp Gate combination.'”

Unlike other users, sage Hyein, who dealt with space, had another quest linked to it, but there was no time to check the details.

The notification window was not the only thing.

Moreover, the black crane paleos and the red goat paleos, so many users emitted light to the point where the black crane paleos and the red goat paleos had to take a few steps back as if covering their eyes.

Of course, it was a phenomenon that accelerated the festival.

『You have completed the quest ‘Beyond the Dawn Sea’.』

『Quest Completion Reward Collection Location: Ezwen Papacy』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

“Uhaha, I leveled up again!”

“Waaaah, it’s blinding~! I can’t even take a screenshot!”

The joyous cheers of other users, accompanied by a scream, reached Leeha’s ears. Ding-dong, ding-dong, the seemingly endless level-up notifications continued.

“Crazy, how many more levels? And there’s no achievement notification or anything!”

Leeha quickly sifted through the notification windows. Usually, achievements were acquired simultaneously with quest completion or item collection, but this time was a bit different.

‘Directly to the Vatican…?’

If it were a reward like an achievement, the notification would occur immediately. However, mentioning the Vatican meant there was undoubtedly an additional reward. Leeha could sense that.

Until now, quest completion rewards had been something like ‘come somewhere.’ ‘An item!’

And it wasn’t just any item—it was from the Vatican. With this difficulty level, the treasure warehouse would undoubtedly open!

Leeha remembered something. Bottleneck had said once, “Orichalcum is a divine mineral, something valuable that could be found in the royal palace warehouse of Fibiel or the Vatican.”

“So, the Vatican’s treasure warehouse is no less than Fibiel’s treasure warehouse!”

How many unintentional (?) items has Leeha acquired until now? Every time he tried to eat something, another item was needed for a different reason, or the quest giver automatically took care of it. In the end, Leeha never had items that he absolutely needed or wanted.

This time, this time for sure, Leeha vowed to get it.

While other users speculated about the joy of leveling up and the Vatican summon, there was one person who seemed particularly unexcited.

This time, the joy of leveling up wasn’t emitted to all users, leaving one person excluded: Alexander. Whose misfortune would Alexander’s unhappiness be?

“It’s over, Alexander couldn’t level up, right? I caught up, didn’t I? Right on the verge of being caught? Even if I count the level difference between us with one hand—”

『Silence』.”

Leeha, circling around Alexander, got silenced.

It seemed like Bailephus silenced Lee Jiwon for teasing Alexander too much to the point that Leeha thought Lee Jiwon might get hit. Blocking Lee Jiwon’s mouth right now to prevent further teasing would be a greater punishment for Lee Jiwon than using magic to retaliate.

“Are you okay?”

“Of course.”

Despite Bailephus asking with a bit of concern, Alexander remained calm, clenching his fist.

“The supreme and the ordinary can’t be equal, don’t you think?”

With his unique role-playing and arrogance, Alexander added a touch of pretentiousness.

Leeha, who had expected Alexander to be somewhat disheartened, inadvertently turned everyone, including other users, against him.

“Even if I don’t tell you to, you’ll probably do it, but… make sure to save the location in the crystal ball! That way, you can come back here.”

“Oh, by the way, Hyein, what was that quest you mentioned earlier?”

“Yes. Within three days, they need to bring the Warp Gate Assembly members here. Once they create the Warp Gate here, other users will start setting foot on the New Continent.”

Hyein mentioned it casually, nodding.

In an instant, the expressions of the New Continent Expedition members changed.

The camaraderie that was present just moments ago suddenly disappeared.

“Other users are coming…”

“I see. So that’s why it’s ‘up to 5 days.'”

“Summoning to the Papacy is probably for the same reason. Naturally, it would be individual reception.”

Each expressed their thoughts with a brief comment.

(To be continued…)
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 “What? What’s going on?”

While everyone else had already caught on, Leeha was still looking around, seemingly oblivious.

“As of now, the New Continent Expedition is disbanding. It was a delightful journey together. I wish everyone good health. Let’s go, Bailephus.”

‘Disband’

Hwaaaaaaaa—!

Bailephus transformed into a golden dragon. Alexander quickly boarded, and the dragon immediately took flight. On the ground, Lee Jiwon was making a fuss, but at the same time, he hastily left, leaving behind an awkward excuse for the other users.

“Well then, everyone, it was a pleasure. The time spent with the Great Ones will be a splendid nourishment for me and our Hwangryong. Zaichien!”

“Let’s go together, Pei Wu!”

“We’ll come along too!”

Alexander and Lee Jiwon were followed by Pei Wu. The tight-knit group, including him, hwangryong’s Bald Panda, taoist Mu, and Taoist Baeju, immediately set off.

“I should be going now. I can’t miss this opportunity. How about going together, raphaela?”

“I appreciate your company.”

Summoner Elmi and Saint Raphaela formed a party. While Elmi’s summoned creature was slowly being created, the two women bid farewell to the members of the expedition.

“Well then, everyone! If fate allows, let’s meet again.”

“If you want to raid with me, make sure to book a week in advance! You know we’re ‘nobles’ when we raid, right?”

Saint Raphaela emphasized her role as a healer with a playful smile. Everyone laughed lightly at her small joke.

“Huh?”

And before Leeha, a friend request window appeared. Elmi and Raphaela had almost simultaneously sent friend requests. Leeha looked at them for a moment, eyes widening.

The two had only exchanged greetings with the members of the expedition and hadn’t engaged in much conversation. Moreover, the idea of sending a friend request wasn’t something that came easily to them…

“At times like this, it makes you realize you can’t trust anyone in Middle Earth. They party together, go on hunts, and then, without saying a word, they send a friend request?”


But on the other hand, there was a sense of gratitude. They hadn’t shown any suspicious behavior during this voyage, and, above all, weren’t they users who stood out in Middle Earth?

“Well, it’s not just because they’re women—Accept, accept!”

Two female users were added to Leeha’s friend list.

Led by Pei Wu’s team and Raphaela’s party, users bid farewell, exchanged friend requests and acceptances like exchanging business cards, and dispersed in an instant.

“Where is eong-ah going?”

“What? Where else would I go?”

Leeha shrugged, and a few remaining users sighed.

“… It wasn’t a joke.”

“You’re as foolish as your face is.”

Even Kidd and Luger had stayed back to observe Leeha’s actions, but upon realizing that Leeha had no particular plans, they found it absurd and sighed. Leeha responded with a cheeky laugh.

“… Didn’t Hyein mention it earlier?”

“Hyein? Said they would bring the warp gate assembly members within 3 days? What’s that? Hyein is already gone.”

“Yeah, already gone. A while ago.”

Kijung expressed his disbelief as if to say, ‘Is this person really the one who made the biggest contribution in the past and in this quest?’.

Surprisingly, Hyein disappeared using consecutive blinks. It’s impossible to travel to the Old Continent using blink, but perhaps he intended to check various places in the New Continent. Anyway, with the completion of the Mana Relay Tower, there would be no user as perfect as Hyein in moving between the Old and New Continents. It was also an expression of confidence that he could visit the Old Continent anytime.

“Come on, eong-ah! Try to be smart at times other than when sniping! Hyein purposely gave us a ‘hint’!”

“Hint?”

“He said ‘within 3 days’, but Hyein won’t bring them earlier than that! Why? Because it takes two more days for the warp gate assembly members NPCs to create the warp gate! If you think about the 5 days in the notification as the ‘maximum period’, it’s natural.”

“Yeah. So? Even if Hyein brings them immediately, the notification window will decrease from 5 days to 3 days. The warp gate will be completed the day after tomorrow.”

Leeha seemed to be saying something obvious, but Kijung was even more bewildered.


Didn’t he understand the meaning of the notification despite knowing it? ‘Even if he’s my cousin, should I call him naive…’

Kijung sighed and patiently explained, “Well, eong-ah. If Hyein brings the warp gate assembly members, the number of users will rapidly increase from two days later, right?”

“Yeah.”

“So, when do you think Hyein will bring the assembly members?”

“Well, within 3 days… or when Hyein brings them?”

“No, dummy! Where are we right now?”

“On the New Continent of Erika.”

“And who is here?”

“We, the members of the New Continent Expedition!”

“Exactly! So why was the notification definitively saying ‘5 days’? The system of Middle Earth knows more about humans than you do.”

Leeha’s eyes widened gradually.

Why was the notification clearly stating ‘5 days’? The Middle Earth system seemed to know more about humans than Leeha did.

“Advantage!”

“Yeah! It’s another advantage for the New Continent Expedition members! Do something first, whether it’s exploring new areas, or raising intimacy with red goats or black cranes, before other users set foot on the New Continent! It’s a daily gift from Middle Earth to the New Continent Expedition members, equivalent to 5 days in Middle Earth time, one day in reality.

Strictly speaking, it’s giving Hyein the authority to choose, but there’s no need to hesitate; it’s obvious that it’s 5 days!”

Hyein also couldn’t give up the advantage of being the first to set foot on the New Continent. Naturally, after using the full 3 days, he would bring the Warp Gate assembly members NPC.

Other users had already noticed this when Hyein said, “I’ll bring them in 3 days”, and they had set out to find more ground to gain.

“This is not the time for this!”

“Yeah, stupid eong-ah! That’s why almost everyone left—ah, geez…”

“Kikik, Shin Nara-nim, have you fallen for that Ha Leeha-nim’s appearance? Do you like innocent and bland men?”


“W-Who would fall for him!?”

As Kijung sighed, Biyemi teased Shin Nara.

Shin Nara waved her hands and stepped back, but the users near Leeha already knew everything.

“Oh, I see. Coming to the Pope’s Palace to collect— in a sense, it’s a hint and a trap. Come and receive it on your own initiative.”

Going to Ezwenn first to collect?

If that happened, other New Continent Expedition members would quickly rush around, sweeping up new area discovery experience, new fauna familiarity 100% experience, achievements, and more.

“What are you going to do, Kijung?”

Leeha suddenly felt his body lighten.

Now, the disbanded New Continent Expedition members were scattered in various directions. Anxiety crept in, feeling that it might be too late no matter which direction he chose.

“We’ve already decided. First, let’s go outside Redwood and categorize the monster spawning areas.”

“Monsters?”

“Yeah. We’ll find out which level range is most efficient for hunting in each location. We need to catch them all to differentiate the experience points.”

“What if we don’t discover them?”

“Haha, Hyein is with us for regional discovery. We’ve agreed that he will handle places where achievements pop up. At least for the next few days, Hyein will be faster than Fernand. Haha!”

Byulcho had reasons for being relaxed! Having someone on the team who could instantly cover distances with Blink was part of the plan! Indeed, Hyein’s consecutive use of Blink was all premeditated.

“Me?! I’ll call you too—”

“eong-ah, you’re not in our guild.”

“Hey, be careful with your words!”

“Hoho, so, Leeha-nim, come to ‘our’ Byulcho too.”

When Leeha hesitated, Bobae, sticking close to Kijung, opened her mouth. One word she chose made Leeha feel awkward.

“’Our’ Byulcho? Bobae, do you mean—”

“Yeah. I decided to join Byulcho too. It’s the guild with the best tanker in Middle Earth, using ‘tank aggro’ and everything. Why wouldn’t I join?”

“Oh my…”

“Now, our Byulcho is a guild with a Top 10 ranker. Haha, if you want to join, contact us anytime, eong-ah! Byulcho members, let’s go!”

Piiiiik—

Suddenly, the transformed Jin Gonggong in the sky let out a long cry. During the voyage, Leeha momentarily forgot about the druid who joined Byulcho.

“Come to think of it—the one who gained the most from this voyage was Byulcho?”

Byulcho seemed sturdy enough that they even forgot about the various achievements and gains Leeha had.

Was it because of jealousy or other emotions, that a gaze watching him from afar went unnoticed? The hidden presence behind the giant Redwood tree was not visible. After a while, a sound emerged from above where the invisible spirit was hiding, but the watching gaze on Leeha remained unwavering.

***

“Puhihihit, surpri〜 se〜 are you spying again, Chiyou?”

The one hiding was Chiyou. The person who quietly appeared above her, from the beginning, knew that Petyr was moving stealthily on her head and was not surprised.

“What a mean word, ‘spying.’ I’m just observing the situation. Where are you going, Petyr?”

“I’m here to surprise someone. Where else would I go? Puhuhu!”

“Hmm, right. Are you here to kill her?”

Even without Petyr saying anything, Chiyou immediately recognized who he was targeting. Did Petyr have no intention of hiding his target from her? The moment the term ‘that girl’ came up, Petyr’s gaze changed frighteningly.

“5 days without that irritating sacred.”

The 6th-ranked assassin swallowed the words ‘enough.’

If Shin Nara continued to stay in Erika Continent? Not to mention, most users have scattered by now. The ‘forces’ that would support her side disappeared entirely.

Moreover, in this place where the order of the Old Continent has yet to reach, even if it’s a territory of paleo NPCs, there was a high chance of observing fights among users, especially now that most of them have turned into small groups.

Petyr, as an assassin of his caliber, wouldn’t overlook that point. And with Petyr’s calm words, Chiyou also had the ability to visualize the future situation in her mind.

“Huhu, if it succeeds, be sure to let me know.”

Petyr’s plan had a very high chance of success. Petyr was satisfied with Chiyou’s answer which seemed like ‘acknowledgment’ in a way.

“Puhuhut, what are you scheming on the Lope Continent?”

“Well, I wouldn’t go as far as to say I’m scheming. If she receives the death penalty, there will be many people in shock, those who will retaliate, idle NPCs, and NPCs to be exploited. And won’t there be various additional quests for herself?”

The main penalty Shin Nara would face upon death is a 48-hour restriction from logging in. In the time of Middle Earth, signified a gap of a whole ten days.

What happens then? How would the countries of the old Lope Continent react at this current point when the quests in the new continent have concluded?

The time of the user from the Holy Knights of Fibiel or the royal family of Minis would be too precious to be wasted.

Of course, there was a high possibility that one of them could be the resumption of using Petyr for the assassination of the king, for the sake of the future power struggles related to the new continent.

“Anyway, she’s a woman I don’t like. Kishisissit…”

Petyr looked at her and chuckled. As the corners of his mouth lifted, his face, adorned with clown makeup, took on an eerie expression. However, Chiyou didn’t blink and met that face without flinching.

“If you don’t like it, what can you do? It’s not strange for people from different factions like Fibiel and Minis to collaborate. I’ll offer you eavesdropping and shared vision, Petyr. Accept it.”

“Are you telling me to walk around barefoot? Puhuhuhut! So, what do I gain from this?”

Petyr’s question received no further response from Chiyou. Using her long, white fingers, she tapped her head twice.

Petyr glanced at her for a moment but didn’t dwell on it. At least for the next 5 days, the fact that they couldn’t use their existing foundations on this new continent remained the same.

For this brief period, if this intelligent woman provided analysis on the information she found, it would be a sufficient reward.

Swoosh!

Petyr disappeared as if riding a spider web, ascending into the branches. The figure of Chiyou, who had her face peeking out from the tree trunk, had also vanished by then.

(To be continued…)
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 Near the mana relay tower, only three men and three women remained: Leeha, Kidd, Luger, Shin Nara, Ram Hwajung, and Rubini. The group gathering, which had 41 users and numerous paleos NPCs, had dispersed in an instant.

“What are you going to do, Leeha-ssi?”

“Well… What about you, Nara-ssi? Got anything to do?”

“I was thinking of getting friendly with the paleos. There’s even an achievement for reaching 100% affinity.”

“Only one spot left in the Hall of Fame from now on. There will be a lot of competition”, added Kidd, reacting to Shin Nara’s words.

A considerable number of the scattered members of the original New Continent Expedition are aiming for the achievement of 100% affinity with paleos. This is because not only has the achievement been confirmed, but there is also one spot left in the Hall of Fame, excluding Leeha and Rubini. However, Shin Nara remained confident even after hearing Kidd’s words.

“Huhu, Kidd, you do know my nickname, right?”

“…The user closest to the NPC. Are you confident?”

“Of course. In fact, when I was imprisoned, I already reached 25% affinity with a few guards.”

Shin Nara expressed confidence with a slight squint of the eyes.

Kidd and even Luger, who usually remained silent, found this achievement notable.

“If it were Luger, it would have taken a year to achieve 25%.”

“Well, don’t make me laugh! I do well when I want to!”

“Hahaha! That joke is quite amusing; please use it often.”

“You little…”

While Kidd and Luger were bantering, Ram Hwajung approached Leeha.

“Oppa. Hunting.”

“Hunting? Well, no, I’d rather explore a bit than hunt.”

“Tsk.”

Ram Hwajung’s cheeks puffed up.


However, she, too, was unwilling to give up the advantage of the ‘5 days in the New Continent’, untouched by anyone’s influence. An unexpected person made her a proposal.

“Ram Hwajung, would you like to accompany me? I know you usually prefer solo play, but it could be quite helpful.”

“…map woman.”

Is Rubini’s decision to accompany Ram Hwajung a conscious choice? Leeha looked at her with quite a surprised expression, but Rubini responded with an awkward smile.

‘Even though we rarely talk. Suddenly a hunting proposal? What could be on her mind?’ Leeha couldn’t guess why Rubini chose Ram Hwajung. Throughout their hunting together, he wondered what conversations might be happening between them. It was unpredictable. Interestingly, the sight of the two together made Shin Nara briefly show a hint of vigilance.

“You can call me Rubini.”

“I don’t want to. But… let’s go together. Map woman.”

Although it was an indirect request to call her Rubini, Leeha understood that getting to know each other better was necessary to hear her proper title.

“Well then, Ha Leeha-nim. Until next time.”

“Oh, yes… Right. With Rubini-ssi, Ram Hwajung should be safe. Take care.”

Leeha offered a polite farewell, but those words only seemed to irk Ram Hwajung even more.

“It’s not dangerous even without map woman. Hmph.”

Her blue hair swayed as she turned around and lay down. Rubini followed behind her with light footsteps.

“Alright then, I’ll be going too.”

“Yes. Well, it might be a bit easier if I meet those red goat paleos and use my name.”

“Don’t worry. I’ll handle increasing NPC familiarity better than you, Leeha-ssi. If anything comes up, contact me! ‘See you next time.'”

“Oh! Yes. Until next time… Outside.”

Shin Nara emphasized ‘next’ in a way that made Leeha understand its significance. As Leeha nodded in response, Shin Nara headed towards the red goat paleos’ village with a satisfied expression.

Even the giant NPCs had left the red goat paleos’ village on ships, exchanging food and other materials. Now, only three remained.

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger formed a triangle, casting occasional glances at each other. It seemed like a standoff.


“Not going to shoot?”

“If it’s your wish, I can shoot anytime.”

“Wishful thinking. What are you two up to? Since you stayed behind, you must have something to say?”

Ignoring Leeha, Kidd and Luger exchanged glances, revealing their intentions to Leeha.

“If you’re not dating, speak up quickly. What are you waiting for?”

Although Leeha was all pumped up, Kidd and Luger remained nonchalant.

“You idiot. Why did we stay here? What could three people have to do?”

“Whether you’re quick-witted or slow, I don’t know…”

“What? What are you talking about?”

“We couldn’t find any more traces on the Lope Continent. Naturally, we doubted if it would be on the New Continent.”

“What are you suspecting? What traces?”

“The person the Three Musketeers need to find.”

Kidd muttered.

“No, have you already forgotten that there’s a ‘race’ we’re looking for?”

When Kidd dropped another hint, Leeha finally realized. The presence the Three Musketeers needed to find—an NPC who might have the information and data they wanted.

“… Kaztor!” A member of the Dark Elf village, who escaped a hundred years ago.

『Retrieve the Lost Records of the Dark Elves』

Content: Retrieval and return of Dark Elf material, including the journal of “Arcane Sniper.”

‘That’s right, the quest… I even found number 6.”

Kidd and Luger had already found 1-5, and Leeha had found number 6 in an unexplored area. However, despite Leeha’s efforts, they couldn’t find any information about number 7.


“From 1 to 6, my guess is that they all contain different information. We can try combining them to trace the clues for number 7.”

“I found the most, so I don’t need to share with empty-headed bastards like you. Run around like dogs and find number 7 for me.”

Luger dismissed Kidd’s reasonable suggestion.

Knowing that cooperation might not be forthcoming after the grand expedition of the New Continent, Leeha was somewhat prepared for this. However, this time was different. There were items to control Luger.

“Alright, the most difficult to find, number 6! Logically, the most important information should be where I found it, right? I already confirmed with Fernand. The achievement grades varied for each number. Number 6 was B+, but you don’t have anything higher than that, right?”

As other research labs of Kaztor were below B-grade, Luger had nothing to say. Kidd chuckled, adjusting his hat.

“We don’t know anything about ‘Arcane Sniper’ or Kaztor. What’s clear is that it’s impossible to progress to the next stage without clearing this quest.”

So just spill it. Though Kidd didn’t explicitly say it, both Luger and Leeha understood. Luger, fiddling with his cobalt-blue python, exchanged glances with Leeha.

‘I don’t know what was written in Kidd and Luger’s labs, but I can make a rough guess.’

While Luger hesitated, Leeha revisited his memories. At least, he remembered all the facts mentioned about “Arcane Sniper.”

『Arcane Sniper, or Arcane Bullet, is something that one of the Three Musketeers can become, and only one person among them can have the qualification. Luger thought that there might be something – perhaps a title – that could take it away.』

The combination of fragmentary information they found while exploring Lab #5. However, even that was far from being confirmed. As Leeha already knew, the lab had only “speculative” information.

Although there were various speculations, at the current moment, the confirmed facts about Arcane Sniper for the Three Musketeers were zero, just like before.

‘It’s a pity. Among the hints for No. 6, the keyword was ‘human’.’ So, following the rule that the area under the lamp is dark, Leeha thought it might be somewhere near a human village, but that wasn’t the case. Thinking about it again, Leeha agreed with Kidd and Luger’s speculations. The paleos here are different from any race on the Lope Continent, having unique appearances and transformation abilities.

‘Human strength… It might be the need for human form. The original Arcane Sniper was human, as the Dark Elf elder mentioned.’

Then, what about the Dark Elf Kaztor? He might have pursued the ability to ‘transform’ to obtain the appearance of a human.

As the creatures here knew about dragons, Kaztor could have heard or speculated about the existence of the new continent through ancient studies.

‘No, this is just a practical reason. It makes sense even if you think purely from a gaming perspective. Since there were no research labs on the old continent, he would have naturally set it up on the new continent.’

From all perspectives, Leeha’s reasons for moving made sense. Moreover, he would enjoy the advantage of the 5 days when other users wouldn’t come. There was no way that Kaztor’s research lab would be near the village.

“Still, I can’t tell you.”

“Ay, you’re really stubborn-”

“But I’ll move with you.”

Clank-!

Luger turned his body, holding the cobalt-blue python, and walked towards the Redwood Forest. His resolute attitude, signaling no more backtracking, left Leeha and Kidd sighing, shaking their heads in resignation.

“Well, that’s fortunate in itself.”

“In not resorting to pointing a gun to our heads… That too, in this journey, he feels somewhat closer to being ‘human.'”

“Haha, that makes sense. Luger, let’s go!”

Leeha and Kidd followed Luger. Finally, all members of the expedition had completely dispersed.

“But, is it okay to move so recklessly? Shouldn’t we at least catch some clues?”

Leeha replaced the Black Bass’s magazine, casually throwing a remark while grinding the barrel.

“It’s reasonable.”

Kidd nodded in agreement. Whether it was Leeha or Kidd, their situations were similar.

Since they hadn’t been to the Lope Continent, both were on the verge of running out of bullets. It wasn’t just about wasting time but also conserving ammunition. They naturally wanted to move based on reliable information, even if it was just to save bullets.

“Do you think I wouldn’t know what even you little newcomers know?”

“Huh? Know about information? That’s impossible. This is the New Continent, right?”

“While there were partial testimonies about Arcane Sniper in different labs, it’s not to the extent of being confident, is it?”

“Just shut up and follow.”

Luger confidently moved forward. Leeha and Kidd were left bewildered. If he was so confident, why bother moving with them? ‘Considering Luger’s personality, it would be more like him to secretly go alone. Anyway, he thinks he’s the best…’ Yet, why did Leeha and Kidd feel like he needed something?

Moreover, this is the New Continent.

The mention of Kaztor’s Research Lab No. 7 was intriguing to Leeha, but he agreed that it wasn’t conclusive. Moreover, he considered it unlikely that there would be information available that could make him so confident.

Kidd shared a similar thought with Leeha. The gazes of the two, following behind Luger, exchanged a moment.

“Indeed, he might be the one who has explored the most labs. Suddenly looks cool.”

“Yeah, there’s a vibe of the original Three Musketeers.”

“Hmph, saying something that is obvious.”

Luger, who was walking ahead, turned his head and let out a snort. However, the corners of his mouth were slightly raised compared to before.

(To be continued…)
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 “Even when given substantial clues, most people can’t interpret them properly and end up wasting them. In that regard, Luger seems genuinely remarkable.”

“I agree. Headmaster Browless often compared me to Luger.”

“Heh, indeed, only someone with a proper head could be the director. The two of you still have a long way to go.”

Once again, Luger’s mouth corners slightly lifted. He even slowed his pace. Was it to narrow the distance and hear the conversation better from Leeha and Kidd?

“I find it nerve-wracking to move like this without proper maps or a compass.”

“As long as we follow Luger, we shouldn’t have any losses.”

Leeha and Kidd struggled to hold back their laughter.

Until the entrance of the Redwood Forest, Luger had been walking far ahead, but now he was almost side by side with Leeha and Kidd.

“Isn’t that right, Luger?”

“That’s right, Luger! We just have to follow and trust you, right? The unrivaled musketeer Luger of 『Pierce』!”

When Leeha and Kidd asked again, Luger finally turned to look at them. Not only did the corners of his mouth go up so high, he put so much force on his neck that veins were sticking out.

“Hahaha! Of course! I’ve known since I saw those paleos NPC fools like the red goats and black cranes have nothing worth seeing. They don’t know humans, let alone Dark Elves. Clearly, the NPC group contacted by Kaztor must be elsewhere. Since there are only these two paleo groups in Redwood, let’s first leave this place, and while you two build intimacy with the new paleo NPCs you find, narrow down the range-”

‘As expected. It is like that. Moreover, as Kidd mentioned earlier, with his personality, it would take over a year for him to raise intimacy alone.’

“Um, yes. Let’s go.”

Leeha and Kidd nodded and moved on.

Passing by Luger enthusiastically explaining things to them.

“Huh, wait! Aren’t you going to listen to me anymore?”

“What?”

“I, I’m Luger, the unrivaled musketeer in history, Luger! Of 『Pierce』-”

“I heard everything. Now be quiet.”


Thud, only the sound of Kidd stepping on fallen twigs echoed in the silence.

Being simple-minded wasn’t a sin. Being foolish isn’t a sin either. It was inevitable for someone who has struggled with forming relationships with people. Perhaps the real issue lies with those who exploit it.

Even in moments when Luger’s body trembled, there was satisfaction in Leeha and Kidd, who chuckled with a contented smile.

“Th- these damn bastards are playing with me!?”

Click!

Luger loaded his Cobalt Blue Python.

The palpable sound of metal made Leeha and Kidd flinch. Normally, they might dismiss it as a joke, but not now.

“I’ll kill you!”

“Hey, hey, crazy guy really shot- whoa!”

“Calm down, Luger. If you go wild, you’re the only one at a loss—heup!”

There was no time to talk. Leeha to the left, Kidd to the right! The two quickly leaped behind the massive tree trunk of Redwood.

Quaaaahhh——–

Goooooaaaahhhhh———

–!

An unexpected cannon blast echoed through the vast Redwood.

The sound was loud enough to be heard by some members of the New Continent Expedition scattered throughout the area.

“The ignorant guy, really shooting and causing a commotion.”

“What if we had been hit by that?”

Leeha and Kidd grumbled, recalling the previous situation. Once again, Luger, who led the way, did not respond to their remarks.

***


The location where the Mana Relay Tower was installed was the narrow coastline where the New Continent Expedition first set foot.

Redwood’s dense forest didn’t offer a suitable area to install a Mana Relay Tower. As a result, everyone dispersed from that location to follow their own paths. This meant that the trio of the Three Musketeers had been walking from the very beginning of Redwood’s complete entrance.

Although Redwood, dominated by red goat paleos or black crane paleos, was vast, it had been over five hours since they scattered, taking screenshots. Since Luger fired the cannon toward Leeha and Kidd three hours ago, it implied they had covered quite a distance.

“… Hm?”

“Oh! Is this annoying forest finally coming to an end?!”

Indeed, it was a reasonable expectation that Redwood would eventually end. As realistic as the game was, there were still moments as tedious as real life in Middle Earth. One of the things users disliked the most was movement.

“If it were in a somewhat explored area, you could use a warp gate or even read a book while riding a carriage… But walking around an unexplored area like this is truly hell.”

However, that hell was now coming to an end. Perhaps whatever Luger experienced with Leeha and Kidd had somewhat eased (?), as his footsteps had become noticeably lighter.

Step, step, step, step, step!

The pace of the three accelerated.

Passing through Redwoods much thicker than the pillars of most buildings, the Three Musketeers finally encountered a new scenery.

“We’re out! Oh my, goodbye to this tedious forest!”

“Seeing that there’s no discovery experience, it seems either someone has been here, or it’s not an area where discovery experience would trigger.”

Leeha stretched out both arms and yawned widely. Kidd checked if there was any notification window popping up but found no additional information or rewards.

“Making noise as soon as we come out to this undeveloped area, searching for experience points… As expected, thick-headed people can’t help themselves. You guys are still far off—”

“Don’t act so high and mighty, Luger. Be careful; something is moving about 1.6 km in front of the entire direction. I’m not sure if it’s a small-sized monster or an animal.”

“—I’ll definitely make you blind. Damn it.”

Luger tried to retaliate against Leeha for the previous revenge, but Leeha remained unaffected. He pretended to look relaxed, but he actually wasn’t.

Strictly speaking, Leeha was probably the person who knew the terror of Erika Continent the best at the moment. He directly faced the attacks of the red goat paleos and even fought with the black crane paleos.

As they emerged from the forest into a slightly undulating undeveloped area, Leeha was not foolish enough to expose himself recklessly. Kidd already had two Crimson Geckos lifted in both hands, the Three Musketeers were truly the Three Musketeers.


“Should we do a check?”

“It’s my job, so don’t move out of the way and get lost.”

Luger pushed Leeha aside and led the way. Kidd also sprinted energetically. In essence, it was as if they had reached the New Continent and encountered a creature for the first time. Excluding the paleos, who were NPCs, what lay ahead was a mystery.

Creature? Monster? Another NPC race?

“Whatever it is, what’s important is that there might be an achievement or something related to the first hunt!”

Leeha quickly opened and closed the friends’ window to check the positions of others. Whether it was due to caution or a different route, the Byulcho Group was still inside the Red Wood.

The locations marked for Alexander and Lee Jiwon were somewhat intriguing, but they differed in names from Kidd and Luger’s positions.

“The only ones here are us! Hehe, let’s go!”

The three of them walked quickly, seemingly determined not to fall behind. Naturally, they didn’t move straight towards their destination. Utilizing the surrounding terrain was the instinct of long-range dealers!

When they closed the gap from the lingering figure at a distance of 1.6 km to 900 m, the location where the Three Musketeers were became a spot on a hilly area.

All three of them began observing from a prone position, but the details weren’t as clear as Leeha would have preferred.

Kidd adjusted his hat and asked Leeha, “Do you know what it is?”

“.. Uh… Well, I’m not sure how to describe that thing—”

“Don’t hesitate, just say it. This useless topic is all about the looks—”

“No, no, this time I’m not trying to tease you; I genuinely don’t know.”

Luger attempted to provoke Leeha again, but this time Leeha’s expression was serious. The mood for joking didn’t seem right.

“What does it look like?”

“Uh… It has horn-like things on its face—”

“Rhino.”

“-can you listen to what I am saying before you speak? And, um, I can’t count its legs. There seem to be around four or fifty of them.”

“Hmm?”

“It has very small legs that move sluggishly, like the legs of a centipede or maybe a millipede?”

Horns like a rhino, countless small legs moving, and a body like a giant crab.

Leeha couldn’t quite determine what to call the slow-moving creature. Fortunately, it seemed that there was someone nearby who wasn’t particularly bothered by whatever it was.

“I’ll give it a shot.”

Luger quickly stood up, raising the Cobalt Blue Python. The direction of the muzzle was clear.

“Well, hold on. Shouldn’t we figure out the pattern first before attacking?”

“That’s exactly it. The fastest way to figure out the pattern is this!”

“Maybe I should go first—”

Before Kidd could step forward, Luger had already pulled the trigger.

Boom!

The roar echoed not long after leaving Redwood.

What Leeha was worried about wasn’t just whether the attack would work or not. It wasn’t even about discerning the strength of the monster.

As Luger had mentioned earlier, this was an unexplored territory! There would be no obstacles to sound transmission, and finding the origin point should be easy!

Without even looking at the new creature, Leeha first surveyed the surroundings. On the way here, it wasn’t clear, but now it was different. There could be monsters lurking somewhere within 1 km ahead.

“Kidd! Check the 11 o’clock direction, just in case someone comes from there. I’m keeping an eye on this side in case anyone shows up—”

“… Really?”

“Of course, really. Why would I lie?”

Swoosh, swoosh!

As Leeha quickly turned his head to survey the surroundings, Kidd asked again. But something was off. Leeha sensed that Kidd’s voice wasn’t directed at him. Moreover, when he confirmed that Luger, the one who fired, had a stiff expression, Leeha felt an uneasy sensation.

“… Could it be?”

Leeha turned his head to the point where the neckbone made a sound. The new monster roughly 900m away hadn’t changed its jet-black appearance. Its body was coiled like a millipede.

“I hit it… but it didn’t die?”

Maybe it was because he didn’t use a skill. Damn monster!

Luger’s complaints were not heard. Such complaints were usually reserved as excuses when dealing with field boss-level monsters. However, what about this monster now?

Did it just casually bounce off Luger’s basic attack as if it were an ordinary monster with nothing special?

“Is this really the new continent? Well, it should be interesting.”

“It’s not the time to be pleased. Its appearance is starting to change.”

Gulp, automatic tension gripped Kidd’s fist. It was clearly visible to Leeha as well. The creature, which had been squirming and curling up, was changing. No, it might be more accurate to say it was ‘evolving’ rather than just changing.

“It’s getting bigger.”

“Rather than that, shouldn’t we be more surprised by the ‘standing up’ part?”

“I think it would be better to pay attention to its lengthened legs.”

With horns like a rhinoceros and a carapace that deflected Luger’s bullets, the creature that crawled on the ground like a bug suddenly lifted its upper body as if it were a human. The constantly moving small legs were now elongated, boasting a horrifying shape reminiscent of a crab’s legs.

Could it be considered as a long bug lifting its upper body?

However, to treat it as a mere ‘bug’ was not fitting, considering how intense its roar was. It was more than enough to send shivers down the spines of the trio!

(To be continued…)
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 “What kind of monster is that—”

“Fool me once, shame on you; fool me twice! Get back, Luger!”

As Kidd moved to observe the creature, Leeha pushed him aside with Black Bass’s muzzle.

The click was already adjusted.

BAAAAAANG—!

Instinctively capturing the creature’s weakness derived from experience! Leeha’s shot hit the creature’s horn squarely in the middle of its face.

The horn, protruding like that of a rhinoceros, couldn’t withstand the force unleashed by Black Bass. Watching the shattered horn fly, Leeha nodded.

“… So that’s how it is. Similar to the time with Cyclops.”

Leeha recalled the time when, along with Browless, they faced Cyclops imbued with demonic power.

For monsters with horns, it was already known that the horn served as the source of energy and a weakness, thanks to previous experiences.

“Right! Damn it, Luger, when will you act like a meticulous hunter and shoot at the body of such monsters? Obviously, the horn is the weakness—”

Roar—

However, that was the case for monsters imbued with demonic power. The creature, a ‘normal monster’ in the Erika continent, emitted a low and pained cry, expressing its disappointment that the horn had broken and anger.

“Huh… not a weakness, huh?”

The horn turned out to be neither an instant death point nor a weakness. Realizing that the attack had only fueled its anger, Leeha looked helplessly. Luger, who had just received a blow, glared at him with a sharp look.

He deflected the 『Pierce』 bullet and withstood the 『Sharpness』 bullet, and even though both failed, the last of the trio was laughing.

“Your accuracy is acknowledged, but it was too hasty. For monsters with a shell-like structure, the weakness is generally the ‘belly.’ Overwhelm the soft flesh underneath, and with explosive firepower, you can pierce through it in an instant.”

Kidd relaxed his muscles as he walked. The tension in his calves and forearms was evident even to me and Luger.

“You speak well. So, can Kidd really do it?”

“I remember Master’s advice.”


“Did you hear some other story alone again?”

“You all heard it too. Recall it.”

Alternating between answering Luger and me, Kidd’s body swelled at that moment.

“What—”

Paaat-!

Kidd’s body was instantly propelled forward. His speed, running across the field, was truly phenomenal! Even a tightrope-walking panda would find it challenging to keep up with Kidd’s current speed.

『Rapid Fire』 is done with the feet! You can’t know how frustrating it was being stuck on the ship!”

Roar———–

With Kidd’s sprint, the monster also began to move vigorously. While keeping its raised ‘upper body’ still, only the legs that touched the ground were moving, digging into the grass and soil.

The momentum of the monster rushing toward Kidd was also fierce.

Looking from a distance, both Leeha and Luger appeared visibly concerned. However, the actual person, Kidd, remained calm.

Buoooooot-!

The creature facing Kidd had a raised upper body that was roughly close to 2m in size. However, for the three individuals who had faced Serpent and Kraken, it didn’t feel particularly large.

Yet, the small hairs attached at the ends of each leg looked as sharp as needles. A long-range dealer without proper armor would have their flesh torn even with a fleeting touch.

Kidd was staring intently at the creature resembling a centipede. As rapid fire, he knew well that the most dangerous things were failing to observe the enemy properly and overly tensing oneself.

He couldn’t shrink back upon seeing the enemy. To insert a volley of bullets precisely at the target, one must control even the slightest tremor in the muscles. That was the destiny of 『Rapid Fire』!

“First shot!”

Kidd quickly applied the brakes, came to a halt, and brandished the revolvers in both hands. Unlike the rapid shots with both hands handling a single revolver, this time, it was different.

Literally, one gun in each hand.

The coordination of pulling the trigger and squeezing it with the thumbs and index fingers was as fluid as using a single finger.


Tadaaai—!

The creature’s movements slowed down in response to the continuous gunfire.

“Hitting is obvious, but-”

“Slightly off! It seems like he tried to concentrate the aim of the left and right hands in one place…”

After Kidd closed the distance Luger, and Leeha observed the battle scene. Kidd’s bullets hit the creature. Despite the tremendous speed and intense sudden stop, each of the six bullets accurately hit the creature.

However, it was regrettable that the impact groups of the left and right hands were slightly spaced apart.

Buooooot-!

The creature had holes, and yellow liquid flowed out, but it still looked intact.

“Hoo… As expected, there’s still room for improvement.”

 The monster sharply swung the legs of its upper body that were not touching the ground. The monster’s leap, which closed the distance in an instant, was unexpected, but the fact that the legs of the upper body stretched ‘a little more’ in the meantime was fatal to Kidd. Kidd tried to widen the distance with a back step, but before he knew it, his front legs were narrowing the distance before his eyes.

“Ugh, what-”

The impact sound resonated as Kidd felt the pressure shaking his body. The creature’s forelegs, rapidly approaching, had stopped moving. The main body of the monster had turned gray.

“…What the.”

With their bodies in the middle, Luger and Leeha each fired their guns as if passing by, hitting the monster! Kidd was not the only one who honed his 『attribute』. Leeha’s 『Hit』 went through the hole made by Kidd’s left revolver and dealt damage.

What about the bullets shot by Kidd’s revolver?

The spot where Luger’s 『Pierce』 passed through had created a hole large enough to fit a person’s head into.

“Whew… Certainly, the belly side seems weak. Is it because Kidd created a hole? Experience points are quite generous, but it’s a very difficult hunt.”

“How pathetic must your level be to get ‘quite a bit’ of experience points from such a monster?”

“The monster’s name seems to be ‘Rhinodilo.’ ‘Rhinodilo’s Shell’, ‘Rhinodilo’s Elongated Leg Bones.’ Did the horn not come out because it was broken?”

Luger, with a determined attitude to recover his crumpled pride, was dismissively ignored by Leeha, who focused only on looting.


Watching them chat and laugh, Kidd swallowed dryly.

“As I advance… they advance as well.”

Already during the voyage, Kidd had sensed it, but Leeha and Luger’s skills were rapidly improving, enough to offset his efforts.

“No achievements?”

“Yeah. I thought there would be at least one like ‘First Monster Defeated!’…

”

“You didn’t get the finishing blow.”

“Huh? What did Luger get?”

“Hehe, it’s a secret.”

Luger smirked triumphantly, snorting through his nose.

Leeha, who momentarily opened his mouth in surprise, realized he had been deceived when he saw Kidd’s exhaling a sigh.

“No way! No way that’s true. You used to have this cool warrior vibe, and now you’ve become such a scammer? It’s embarrassing to be caught in such a lie, you know?”

“Who? Who’s calling me a scammer? What kind of nonsense is th—”

Nothing had changed since the Crolang incident. 『Rapid Fire』 smiled bitterly as he watched 『Accurate』 and 『Piercing』 still bickering.

“We caused too much commotion. We should move qu— huh?!”

Kugugugugug…

As Kidd tried to calm them down and prepare to move again, a sudden vibration caused him to lose balance. The ground shaking was definitely not due to mood swings.

Even Leeha and Luger lowered their postures and looked around.

“What’s going on?!”

“Earthquake? Is it an Earthquake skill?”

However, there was no one around. There was no presence casting a skill anywhere on the vast open ground, not even a shadow toward Redwood.

Unless it was a dragon, no creature casting a skill while avoiding the gaze of Leeha and Luger could exist.

“Who on earth would cause such a—”

Paaa, paaa, paaaat-!

After a moment, soil started gushing up like a fountain from various places around Kidd.

Skill? The vibration that bewildered the Three Musketeers was not something as simple as a ‘mere’ skill.

Paaa, paaaat-!

The Three Musketeers identified the essence of the vibration. Their faces turned grim as it became clear that the shaking signaled the appearance of monsters.

“… Ah, right… But I did think, ‘It feels somewhat like that〜.'”

“Are you saying that now?”

Though Leeha forced a strained laugh, the other two couldn’t find it in themselves to laugh.

Booooom^ ^oooo—§–!

The vibration was a signal announcing the emergence of monsters!

It turned out they were creatures moving underground.

While there were monsters like Basilisks in the Lope Continent, they were limited to deserts. Who could have guessed there would be creatures moving in the soil of such a simple field?

Those horns weren’t the source of mana but were necessary for digging through the underground soil!

“Shut up and run, you idiots! They’re coming from that side! Scatter!”

Luger was the first to carry his Cobalt Blue Pythons and run away. Leeha also grabbed his Black Bass with both hands and ran.

Kidd, too, needed no encouragement.

Run?

Even just a while ago, they had a considerable struggle to catch one of them, but the creatures that had emerged now numbered more than 30, at the very least. Moreover, as long as the distant ground continued to vibrate, it was impossible to predict how many more would emerge.

“Sometimes running away is the answer!”

“Who said we should catch those?! Foolish, truly idiotic individuals!”

“The first one to shoot was you, Luger!”

Even while running away, the Three Musketeers continued their bickering. Behind them, the rhythmic pounding of the creatures’ footsteps echoed continuously.

The item that most affects running speed is the ‘shoes.’

However, taking agility stats as a foundation is a matter of course! Kidd was marginally faster, but Leeha and Luger were not slow by any means.

Nevertheless, the increasing volume of the sound was truly horrifying. Could it be that creatures with many legs were gaining speed significantly?

“Ugh! There are urgent skills to use, but… do we have to go through this trouble with just the first batch of monsters!?”

“Did anyone ask you not to use them? After creating distance, we can think about the strategy again and approach!”

“So, I told you not to shoot in the beginning! I said we needed to observe, but someone went ahead and shot without warning.”

“Shut up and keep running!”

Luger, upon hearing comments that put him at a disadvantage, closed his mouth again and continued to move his feet. Originally, the direction they started running was towards the side where the Rhynodilos did not appear! It was in the opposite direction of Redwood, towards the vast cleared area.

“Run, run!”

“If I party with you, Luger, from now on, I won’t be human anymore—oof!”

“Duck!”

Swoooosh!

Kidd tackled Leeha, who turned his head to scream at Luger. Leeha, even though feeling a powerful impact on his abdomen, could clearly see the black shadow flying over Kidd’s nape.

Both of them tumbled to the ground.

Leeha, using his hands to clear the rising dust, checked on Kidd.

“Kidd! Kidd! Are you okay?”

“I’m f-fine.”

Kidd lay sprawled on the ground, twisted from being thrown. How much strain would it take on his lower body to attempt a leap in the opposite direction at full speed? Leeha couldn’t gauge Kidd’s agility, but his contorted expression gave a rough idea.

“Damn it, what are those things again?! Where did they come from?”

Instinctively, Luger raised the Cobalt Blue Python.

Lowland! Lowland!

Something unfamiliar appeared ahead.

Should they welcome it, shouting words they couldn’t understand, or should they be sad? Leeha, still supporting Kidd, got him up and also looked ahead.

“paleo…? What’s that… Gorilla?”

Ahead were new paleos, similar to the gorillas, and a horrifying horde of rhynodilos in the rear. Leeha briefly considered which side would be easier to break through.

Still, communicating might be better.

“Save us!”

“… This crazy guy.”

Luger’s comment was Leeha’s sentiment.

(To be continued…)
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 “We’re not suspicious people! Well, I should probably explain the concept of being human first—uh, so, well—”

“Eldest hyung.”

“Hmm. They are different from the ones we encountered earlier. They might be our ‘friends.'”

“Huh?”

While shouting, Leeha managed to hear their conversation. It wasn’t perfect, but he could understand the last few sentences.

‘Our friends? What does that mean? The ones they encountered earlier were probably members of the expedition to the New Continent, but what’s the difference between them and us?’

However, there wasn’t much time for contemplation.

“If that’s the case…”

As Leeha was about to respond, another gorilla paleo, referred to as ‘eldest hyung’, raised its arm and loudly exclaimed.

“Lowland! Help against the Rhynodilos!”

Lowland!

The response was concise, and the movement was swift.

The intricately divided muscles and well-developed physique revealed their strength.

However, the weapons they used with such muscular bodies seemed a bit mismatched.

“… Bows?”

The gorilla paleos lined up in a row were holding bows. It was too large to be simply called a longbow. Should it be referred to as a huge bow or a giant bow? Despite their robust, club-like bodies, they used delicate bows. It didn’t quite match, but seeing the huge bows, it didn’t seem entirely implausible.

“Hmm, considering the draw weight, the pulling strength of the archer is undoubtedly essential, but…”

What just passed above Kidd’s head was their thrown projectile. The gorilla paleos immediately strung arrows on their bows and began to draw. There was no warning against the trio, but the outcome was obvious.

“Fire!”

Low—land!


“But they don’t consider our circumstances at all. Duck!”

“Ugh! Luger! You get it now, right? When you attack, you always do it like that!”

Shiiiiii— Shiiiiiiii—

Like the roar of a giant, the arrows flew swiftly. Given their large size, every arrow that passed cast a shadow on the face of the prone Leeha.

Buooooo—

The sound of a powerful impact that could drown out the cries of the rhynodilos followed immediately. The huge arrows, much like the ones used by the gigantic beings, flew rapidly.

‘Facing each other head-on, it should be hitting the skin of their stomachs, but… they could match Kidd, me, and Luger’s joint attack, and kill them with mere arrows?’

Leeha could roughly estimate the attack power of the gorilla paleos. Thinking about it, red goats and black cranes didn’t even have specific weapons. Red goats used throwing attacks, but that was only to hit airborne black cranes. On the ground, they all fought together in a chaotic melee. Their muscles and their bodies were weapons in themselves.

‘If those guys have weapons that can leverage their body characteristics, it’s natural that they would have extraordinary destructive power.’

The attack power of the gorilla paleos was by no means weak. The rhynodilos, numbering over thirty, seemed unable to withstand the onslaught of arrows, turning and running away.

Thud, thud, the impact sound turned into a ticking-tack sound.

Even their powerful arrows couldn’t penetrate the Rhynodilos’ armor.

‘Hmm, I should tell Kijung about that later. It would be good to make a shield with their shells. What was that friend’s remark earlier? And where did they appear? Although the ups and downs of the hills make it a bit difficult, me and Luger wouldn’t have completely missed them.’

While still lying on the ground, Leeha pondered various thoughts. At that moment, a large shadow was cast over the faces of the trio.

“Everyone, get up.”

“Lowland!”

Were they worried about them running away? The gorilla paleos forcibly lifted the arms of the trio. It was like an adult lifting a stuffed animal. Looking at their arms as thick as Leeha’s forearm, he was amazed again. The strength of a gorilla was enough to tear off a human forearm.

“Who are you?”

The eldest gorilla asked.

Who should answer? Kidd and Luger were already exchanging glances. In situations like these, there was only one person who could handle it smoothly.


“Uh, we are… humans from across the sea.”

Leeha barely opened his mouth.

“Across the sea?”

The nostrils of the big gorilla flared.

The gorillas surrounding the trio were breathing heavily, and just the sound of their breath was enough to make their hair stand on end.

It was clear they reacted to the words ‘across the sea.’

“Yes, across the sea…

‘friends’ from beyond.”

The big gorilla nodded while sniffing the trio.

‘Different. Different from red goats and black cranes.’

On the contrary, they were the ones living near the beach. While Redwood is a vast forest, if they knew something about what lies beyond the sea, it is more likely that they would know.

But why are they so fixated on the phrase ‘across the sea’? Moreover, they didn’t miss the word ‘friend’ that these beings mentioned.

“We will take them.”

Lowland!

At the big hyung’s words, the gorilla paleos tightened their grip on the trio’s arms.

“Uh, wait, where are you-”

A pink light flashed from the gorilla paleos. There was no need to confirm that it was teleportation magic.

“What is this? Is this-”

“Gorillas do everything.”

“An underground city…?”


Leeha, Luger, and Kidd looked at the changed scenery in an instant.

On the ceiling were various stones emitting light instead of the sun. Below was a quite large town. It was different from the savage villages in Redwood, resembling more of a city. Their difference from red goat paleos or black crane paleos was clearly felt once again.

Kkang-! Kkang-! Kkang-!

Gorilla paleos were moving around restlessly everywhere. Entrusting their bodies to the guiding hands, the trio observed their surroundings carefully.

“It’s vast. And it doesn’t seem like a natural cave that leads underground?”

No natural light entered from anywhere. Everything was in an artificial state, and most gorilla paleos were busy breaking and constructing something after their transformation.

‘How long did it take to construct such a wide area underground? They’re still expanding it…’

There was no natural light from anywhere. Most of the gorilla paleos moving around were breaking or expanding constructions.

‘It must have taken quite a long time to construct such a wide area underground. And they are still expanding it…’

This city of gorilla paleos living underground was the opposite of the red goats or Black cranes that lived in harmony with nature. It was a fully artificial city.

It was a city with a perfect sewage system and waste treatment facilities, astonishingly civilized.

How did they achieve civilization?

Leeha surveyed the surroundings, focusing on that point.

‘According to Aibex and Hudid’s words, mystical creatures are fundamentally individualistic. They don’t seem to have any desire to unite with someone or expand their influence. Although the personalities may vary between species… how on earth did they organize themselves, build cities, and progress?’

Moreover, the paleos didn’t seem like ambiguous concepts like the ‘children’ of mystical creatures. It seemed nearly impossible for them to gather wisdom and advance knowledge on their own.

Therefore, Leeha had one hypothesis.

‘Someone must have taught them. Should I consider that entity their ‘friend’? Could their use of the term ‘friend’ be related to that? If so, this ‘friend’ is… First, someone from across the sea, and second, definitely not a player. A dragon? Or an NPC? While it’s not possible to rule out the possibility of someone coming over after the Great War, looking at the progression of the story, it seems more likely to be a ‘person who came alone.’

‘Or it could be as Luger believed…’

It could be Kaztor.

While Leeha was the only one who had conversations with the magical beings, both Kidd and Luger were skilled hunters. Their direct senses in the Middle Ages might be less reliable than Leeha’s, but they were still superior to his.

Moreover, they had been searching for Kaztor for a long time. The combination of various pieces of information about him must be in their possession.

‘Considering the progress of the Arcane Sniper quest so far, the possibility of Kaztor seems high. I shouldn’t be too biased…’

While Leeha was organizing his thoughts, an adolescent paleos, still in its human form, approached and asked, “Eldest hyung! What is that? Food?”

The young one was cute, but food?

Leeha was momentarily surprised by the young paleos’s words.

“It’s likely our ‘friend.’ We’re taking it to the Lord, so stay away.”

“Ookay! Friend?! Is that the friend you were talking about? The one who came 20 years ago!?”

The boy paleos made monkey-like sounds and hopped away. Leeha, Kidd, and Luger exchanged glances.

“Hush! We shouldn’t say more. If the Lord decides they are enemies, we might have to kill them. Go away.”

“Woookay! Lowland!”

The young paleos giggled and moved further away. The brains of the trio quickly turned, trying to understand the situation.

Leeha: 20 years ago? What was happening then? Kaztor disappeared 100 years ago.

Luger: Um, Kidd! Use your sharp intuition!”

Luger couldn’t figure it out, and Leeha was left with more questions. Platinum Dragon Bahamut arrived here thousands of years ago. So, what happened just 20 years ago?

‘Clearly not a dragon. Then what could it be?’

While Leeha and Luger were still pondering, Kidd’s expression darkened a bit.

Kidd: Maybe things just got more complicated.”

Luger: What did you think of?

Kidd: If this incident is related to Kaztor—

Leeha: —If it is, Kaztor might be connected to the Second Human-Demon War.”

Luger: Huh? The Second Human-Demon War? Suddenly?”

Kidd: Yes. 20 years ago marks the end of the Second Human-Demon War.”

Luger: Ah! The Second Human-Demon War happened 20 years ago. Those who crossed over to the new continent at that time were all related to the Demon King’s Fragment, Ghibrid, Pyrot Cocri, and other demonic creatures!”

Leeha: If Kaztor is associated with them… But there has been no mention of such a story until now.”

Kidd: No, that’s what I mean. We can’t know if what they’re talking about is Kaztor or not.”

Luger: Perhaps their ‘friend’ refers to the demons. Prepare for escape anytime. We might need to make a hole in the head of that so-called guardian deity before we run.”

Leeha: No, that’s not it. He mentioned that we are different from the people he encountered earlier. Since then, the Demon King’s Army must have passed through here. Some user from the expedition must have passed by, and calling us ‘different’ from them is… illogical.”

Luger: Well, that’s true…”

Luger was trying to play along, but his logic was severely lacking. Leeha also gave him a skeptical look, but with no precise information available, they were left uncertain.

Either way, they would only find out by confronting the situation.

“Lowland! We’ve come to see the guardian deity!”

What’s going on?

“We encountered a group fighting with rhynodillo on the surface. We went to eliminate them, but they are using a weapon similar to our ‘friend’, so we brought them in!”

What? A similar weapon?

“Lowland! And all of them said they came from across the sea!”

… What? What the heck! Let them in! Let them in!

Loud voices of hospitality could be heard from beyond the door. At this point, Leeha was certain. The fact that they could transform into gorillas from the start meant something.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘Their deity, the creature, takes the form of a monkey, right? And that crude way of speaking is also similar to Aibex or Hudid. No, it’s a bit worse.’

Kyi-ik… The door to the sanctuary of the deity in the center of the city began to open. The spacious area was filled with amusement park-like structures, much larger than human-operated rides.

Shwaaack!

From one corner of the space, something rushed towards them at tremendous speed.

“Wucaaah-! Are these guys? Huh?”

Although it was more than three times larger than the gorillas, an overwhelmingly ugly monkey pushed its face toward the trio.

Aibex looked bizarre, and Hudid had an odd body, but this guardian deity was different. Whether it was eyes, nose, or mouth, it was truly a discordant mix, and there was no other way to describe it but “ugly.”

While Luger openly wrinkled his brow, even Kidd covered his face with a hat, but Leeha was different.

“Nice to meet you. I’m Ha Leeha a friend of Kaztor.”

If they could obtain information about Kaztor, he might even be able to endure kissing this ugly face.

Kidd and Luger looked at Leeha with expressions that seemed to say, “What will your reaction be?!”

Is this ‘friend’ they’re talking about really Kaztor?

“Ukikikikit! I’m Harhei! I’m in charge of labor duties! Yeah, yeah, you came from across the sea?”

Introducing himself as Harhei, the humanoid creature responsible for labor duties, jumped up and down in place as if excited.

Is he delighted by the expression ‘friend of Kaztor’? It’s still difficult to judge.

‘Moreover, being in charge of labor? While Aibex was preventing fires, and Hudid was causing them with some special skills… Labor? Is there a special skill for handling manual labor?”

With a grumbling posture, a cheeky tone, and even a designated special ability! Certainly, compared to Aibex and Hudid, there seemed to be some disparity, but Leeha, upon hearing this, didn’t show any signs of tension or surprise.

“Well… yes. Like Kaztor, we also came from across the sea.”

The second mention. Harhei jumped even more excitedly.

Making abrupt movements as he randomly grabbed the big-sized jungle gym installed according to his size.


Thunk, thunk!

Making a loud noise, Harhei moved energetically, and the ‘eldest’ gorilla paleos silently watched his movements.

Luger: How does it look? Just like a crazy monkey, right? Should I shoot it down?

Leeha: Before you shoot your finger off, release the tension in your arm, Luger.

Not only Leeha but also Luger and Kidd couldn’t grasp the situation.

Is the person from 20 years ago Kaztor or not? Even without an answer, hints could be gleaned from the opponent’s gestures, tone, and facial expressions in the world of Middle Earth, where even non-human races operated on similar principles.

“Hu, hu, is this it? Is this what you’re talking about?”

After moving for a while and consuming energy, Harhei stood in front of the trio. Then, in a ‘gun hanging over the shoulder’ state, he approached Leeha and pointed at Black Bass.

“Yes, Guardian Deity. This is what they use. This weapon looks very similar.”

“Hmm, it looks completely different.”

“The appearance is a bit different, but… instead of attacking with the power of words like the Guardian Deity, it fired something. That’s what’s similar.”

“Hmm, hmm! If it’s that smart friend, they might have developed a weapon.”

“That’s right.”

The eldest gorilla paleos nodded in agreement with Harhei’s words. The trio finally understood the meaning that their weapons were similar.

Leeha: Are they saying our guns are similar to their bows?

Luger: Are these guys stupid? Didn’t even the red goats throw something like a spear?

Kidd: Hmm… While throwing objects and utilizing the properties of an object with elasticity are indeed different principles…

Kidd groaned slightly, and paleos was like a complete primitive society. 

‘Now they have built a city and even canals, but just a while ago, they lived without even bows?’

It was almost embarrassing to call them a primitive society, believing in nothing but their physical bodies. Leeha seemed to understand their feelings towards the NPC called ‘friend’.


If someone had brought them to such a developed state, it was only natural that they would be filled with gratitude.

“But even if they use such weapons, we can’t know if they’re our friends, right?”

“Yes.”

“And the claim that they came from across the sea could be a lie!”

“Yes.”

“So let’s kill them all.”

In the rapid exchange of dialogue, the last words from Harhei were momentarily unclear. What was he saying?

“Are they on the side of the demons after all? I knew it, this bastard-”

“Wait a minute! Hold on! It’s important! Our friend asked you to show this weapon to you!”

Luger, using the cobalt-blue python as a pointer, touched Black Bass’s muzzle. Leeha quickly aimed a part of the jungle gym, and fired, and the gunshot echoed like thunder in the already round dome structure.

“Piercing…!”

“Ukhit! Ukyaah!”

“How dare you in front of the god-”

『Summon: Partner』.”

Shwaaaaaai——!

Not satisfied with just that, Leeha immediately summoned his partner. The effect was immediately apparent in a place where space locking was not applied.

Blaugrunn, which had been sent away by ship for safety for a while, appeared above Leeha’s head with a light “Pop!”

『Kyuu?! Kkyu kkyu!』

Flap, flap, flap…!

The eyes of the gorilla paleos, who was about to attack Leeha, widened. Harhei, who was jumping around with his ugly appearance, was the same.


In a sense, it was a gamble.

In recognizing the dragon, aibex had also acknowledged “across the sea.”

Leeha believed that they might remember the Platinum Dragon as well, leading to this action.

However, Leeha’s actions triggered a slightly different reaction from them.

“Go… god. This is-”

“A dragon… A dragon, right. Yes, it resembles the creature that the friend from across the sea showed with mana.”

The gaze of the eldest gorilla paleos and Harhei changed as they looked at Leeha. Even Luger and Kidd could sense an increase in intimacy.

‘Shaped a dragon with mana? They have never seen a Platinum Dragon, and what kind of ‘explanation’ did this NPC give them? Anyway, leave the pondering for later.’

Leeha quickly opened his mouth.

“Yes, we really came from across the sea. Uh, our friend from there left it in the place they used when they were here, and asked us to show it to the deity and change our fate.”

Leeha shamelessly told an unbelievable lie.

Why bother lying like that? Luger made a bewildered expression, but Leeha was confident.

“Ukit! Even if it’s our friend’s friend, that won’t work. Since we were brought here 50 years ago, no one has been allowed to approach that place!”

These guys are fools.

’50 years ago? Wasn’t it 20 years ago just now?’ Did they go back and forth twice? Or is there a confusion in the years? Looking at how they can’t even see the concept of dates, it’s unclear how they perceive time.

While Leeha was momentarily confused, Kidd stepped forward this time. His hand moved for a moment as if to snap, and suddenly there was a small piece made of gold in Kidd’s hand.

“It’s the biggest treasure from across the sea. If you become my friend, Harhei, would you believe what my friend said?”

“Ukit?! Shiny thing! Treasure!”

Harhei jumped around excitedly.

Luger also suddenly straightened his shoulders and looked at the eldest gorilla paleos.

“Those rhynodilos or whatever that you mentioned earlier seemed to be moving underground. Won’t they be a hindrance?”

“What are you suddenly talking about?”

“I’ll take care of them. Inside the cave, at least 30 of them.”

“… Can you really do that?”

“If you guys help, even a hundred of them is possible. It will be much safer, faster, and we can handle it reliably.”

As Luger thumped his chest, the gaze of eldest gorilla paleos changed. After a while, Luger stared into the empty space with vacant eyes.

It was only then that Leeha realized what these friends(?) were doing.

Leeha: I was the one who revealed a dragon and calmed them down! And I’m the one who got hints too! Are you going to raise intimacy only for yourselves?!

It’s indeed an intimacy operation!While Leeha was pondering, Luger and Kidd had already sensed what was going on.

Kidd: The location was decided. Unless NPCs are in the place where they live, they don’t acknowledge the fixednes of the location.

Luger: Fools are still clueless about that, huh! I’ll be the first to open Kaztor’s Research Lab!

Kidd: Shall we bet on it? The person who achieves the highest intimacy of 100% will take the first step into the lab.

Luger: Sounds good to me! You’ll be forever wandering outside, hehehe!

The speculation is that the place no one has approached for 50 years is Kaztor’s new research lab.

“Guardian Deity-nim, I’ll clear the nearby rhynodilos with him and come back.”

“Wuk! Wuk! Alright, alright! How about you? Do you have any treasures again?”

“I have plenty of treasures. I have a lot of stories to tell as well.”

“Good! Good, good! Wuk! Wuk!”

The eldest gorilla paleos took Luger and left, while Harhei grabbed Kidd, and swiftly climbed onto the jungle gym, leaving Leeha alone in the vast dwelling of the Guardian Deity.

“Hey… what’s going on?! And who made a bet without my consent? You bastards!”

Luger went out to take on the quest. Does he not know how to properly raise intimacy?

Certainly, he might not know how to raise intimacy through ‘interaction’, but if it’s given in the form of a ‘quest’, Luger is one of the people who can raise intimacy faster than anyone else!

“If it increases by 10% or 15% with each clear – especially if there are many Rhynodilos – it might be possible to achieve 100% in less than a day!”

What about Kidd?

Kidd was launching a gift offensive against Harhei, the guardian and mystical creature of the gorilla paleos.

The intimacy increase might be lower than with a quest, but if he spoke well, he might create several friendly situations in no time.

And what about Leeha?

“Alright, let’s see how this goes! Blaugrunn! Let’s go!”

『Kyukyukyu!』

Uttering a villainous(?) line, Leeha left the dwelling of the Guardian Deity for now.

(To be continued…)
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 What can he do to quickly increase intimacy with them? As his anxiety grew, Leeha’s mind wasn’t working properly.

“Hmm… What could it be? Maybe I should start with something like cleaning? Cleaning the village?”

『 Kyuuuu, Kyuuu.』

Blaugrunn nodded.

“Well, even Blaugrunn-ssi agrees. Then? How about a hunting quest? I might be able to do it as quickly as Luger.”

『 Kyuuuuuuu…』

“Oh! Shall I help with the construction? With Blaugrunn and me, and even Koma and Jellypong, we could quickly move things, couldn’t we?”

Blaugrunn fluttered its wings, circling above Leeha’s head. The untransformed gorilla paleos were staring at Leeha, their heads cocked.

Compared to their impressive stature after transformation, they looked infinitely humble. There was even a somewhat amusing resemblance to the ugly Harhei. Leeha found it amusing.

『 Kyuu Kyuu! Kyuuu, Kyuuu!』

“Ah… Sure.”

Watching the gorilla paleos gathering like spectators, Leeha suddenly had a thought.

Leeha: Nara-ssi! Can I ask you something…?

Leeha always checked thoroughly.

After a while, Leeha, who was standing in the middle of the street in Gorilla paleo’s Underground City, started walking around the city with a smile on his face. 『Kyuuu! Kyuuu Kyuuu!』

Leeha laughed joyfully, and the gorilla paleos were intrigued, but Blaugrunn remained their favorite.

The vibration of the earth once again shook Luger’s legs. Now, the intensity of the vibration alone could roughly be estimated.

Already nine hours had passed, and the sun on the Erika continent was setting, just before nightfall.

“Get ready. In a moment—”

“Seven to eight, huh?”


“-Indeed. Across the sea, are they learning such knowledge? It has been quite some time, but you can already discern the number of rhynodilos. It takes us several years of training to accurately estimate the numbers, yet—”

“Not all humans from across the sea are the same.”

Clank!

Luger inserted the cartridge, adjusting his posture. In the distance, a gorilla paleo was busy running around here and there.

“I’m something special. 『Artillery Reinforcement: Flat Cannon』.”

Crack, crack, kwack!

Like a fountain of mud, the rhynodilos were overflowing and splashing into the air.

Boohooooo———-!

The whale-like wailing could not resonate until the end. Part of it was due to the overwhelming roar that drowned out the cries, but more importantly, there were projectiles that completely shattered its abdomen, making it impossible for it to continue wailing.

“Hehe, eight of them. Good, good. Call more, quickly! Another thirteen ahead!”

Luger had no regrets. Not only did the gorilla paleos attract aggro, but the experience points were also increasing, albeit slightly!

Although it was regrettable to give all the loot items to the gorilla paleos, it meant nothing to Luger.

The eight rhynodilos chased after the gorilla paleo that had disturbed their nap, but before they could get close, one by one, Luger’s projectiles turned them into mincemeat.

“Impressive. Your weapons have developed so much.”

“Don’t compare it to those primitive bows. Can’t you see that the forms are completely different? Not to mention the difference in destructive power is beyond imagination. The arrows of you guys are at best equivalent to Kidd’s revolver bullets.”

Luger snorted, but the gorilla paleo, whose familiarity had already increased significantly, also snorted in response.

“Heh, don’t underestimate us. If our friend gives us weapons, we can become much stronger too.”

“Haha! It’s unlikely that we know who that friend is. How many 『Cobalt Blue Pythons』 do you think he has? Moreover, you guys-”

“Oh! Come to think of it, it seems I saw something similar twenty years ago. Um, um. I guess that’s why I thought you guys might be our ‘friends.'”

Kwaaaaah———-


Luger’s projectile soared through the air, but it missed the rhynodilo. Considering the mere 500m distance, it was an unusually low hit rate.

“… What? What did you see?”

Luger’s focus was completely disrupted by the words of the large gorilla paleo just now.

“Something similar to this… you saw it twenty years ago?”

Luger adjusted his posture, making the Cobalt Blue Python more visible to the large gorilla paleo.

Although it had been shown numerous times over the past few hours, it was a gesture to show it properly once again.

The large gorilla paleo stared intently at Luger’s weapon.

“Well, it’s a bit different. Hmm, but there seems to have been something similar…”

“Remember it clearly, ape.”

“Ape?”

“Oh, no. eldest hyung. Remember it properly.”

As the large gorilla paleo chuckled, Luger shot back, but in the current situation, the overwhelming ‘underdog’ was Luger.

In other words, if Kidd or Leeha had seen this scene, it would be something they could tease and play with for a long time.

While the large gorilla paleo seemed to be trying to recall memories with snorting and puffing, the answer Luger wanted didn’t come easily.

“Wooooo——! Shoot quickly! Hurry!”

It might have been due to the distant cries of another gorilla paleo.

The gorilla paleo, still being chased by the rhynodilo, waved its arms and called out to Luger and the big one.

“… Such a bother.”

Luger adjusted his posture again and aimed at the rhynodilo. Having to deal with such a critical situation and hunt monsters!

Kwaaaaah————!


As if venting frustration, Luger’s bullet pierced precisely through the rhynodilo’s neck. Yellow fluid gushed out from the rhynodilo that had almost caught up with the gorilla paleo.

“Ugh! Tsk, tsk, tsk!”

The gorilla paleo, showered with bodily fluids, shook itself off vigorously. The consequences of its impulsive action had to be faced.

“Did you really have to shoot like that, Luger?”

“The aim—uh, the aim was a bit off, and that’s how it happened. Sorry about that.”

The furrow on the forehead of the eldest gorilla paleo twitched. Just hearing his stern voice indicated that the recently raised familiarity for completing the quest had been somewhat reduced.

Since the situation predetermined the increase in familiarity per gorilla, the task of capturing twelve more increased to seventeen.

‘Had to bite off more than I could chew. Damn it. I thought I could finish in two hours…’

The time when thirty rhynodilos appeared was only once, when the trio went on a rampage.

Now that he knew that more than ten didn’t spawn at once, the difference of four meant waiting for one more regeneration.

His temper had tripped him up in the end.

“Twenty years ago, that must have been when the Demon Kings’s forces passed through here.”

“Yeah, that’s right. They definitely crossed this land. If our friends hadn’t helped us fifty years ago, we would have been wiped out. Even the guardian deity was on edge because of those guys who didn’t even flinch at cannon fire.”

Listening to the big gorilla paleo’s story, Luger smirked.

“Someone with a weapon similar to this was among them?”

“Well… Hm, I can’t remember exactly. Probably something like that.”

The big gorilla paleo spoke with a tone of uncertainty.

It seemed like he was hesitant to admit it as if forcing himself to say it after denying it beforehand.

However, those words made Luger’s thoughts even more complicated.

‘Damn it, I almost understand that this ‘friend’ is Kaztor, but I have no idea about the position. If they helped these monkey bastards fifty years ago and came with the Demon King’s army twenty years ago? No, if that’s the case, Kaztor is on the side of the demons. These guys wouldn’t have feared the Demon King’s army at the time.”

The quick correction from ‘made them scared’ to ‘made them tense’ suggested that the gorilla paleos likely confronted the Demon King’s forces.

“It’s definitely Ghibrid and Pyrot Cocri that made these bastards frightened… But these beings are pretty strong, but still, they couldn’t stand against the Demon King’s Fragment.”

Moreover, he discovered that the combat power varied among mystical creatures. The strong ones were at the level of Ancient Dragons, while the weak ones couldn’t match Adult Dragons.

In Luger’s eyes, the ugly Harhei was far from Ancient-class.

“Then, is Kaztor a separate entity from the Demon King’s forces on the New Continent? If so, what’s this weapon that’s similar to the Cobalt Blue Python? What is it?”

Kugugugugu…!

Once again, the vibration was fortunate for Luger.

‘Good. If the regeneration speeds up, I can complete the quest faster. Haha, I should be satisfied with gaining information one step ahead of those fools and losers. Having one more puzzle piece for the combination is an enormous benefit.’

When Kaztor’s Laboratory No. 7 opened, while Kidd and Leeha were still lost, he could move ahead first.

Luger chuckled and inserted another bullet. Of course, he wasn’t the only one having such thoughts.

“So… the ‘friend’ who came fifty years ago spread that amazing technology to Harhei-nim and the paleos.”

“Yeah, yeah! Wukit, my ability is ‘the joy of work’! There were times when I was just being exploited by other mystical creatures, but thanks to that friend, we could establish a new territory in the vast underground and put an end to a life oppressed by other mystical creatures.”

“And spreading teleportation skills – no, even magic…”

“Wukit, wukit! It was simple. I didn’t have much to pass on to my children compared to other mystical creatures! What I did for that friend was nothing special, but that friend bestowed everything upon us. Wukit, wukit… That friend is like a benefactor of life, just like you.”

The voice of the ugly Harhei became more somber.

Kidd took out another sparkling gold piece from the bag and handed it to Harhei. His crying immediately intensified with just that.

“Wukat! Wukit!”

Every time Harhei received a piece of precious metal, he immediately used it to adorn himself. Whether it was a gold bracelet, which he put on his finger, or a gold piece that he inserted into his dense fur.

Of course, it didn’t make him look cool. It just made his pitiful appearance even more comical.

The recent statement seems to be a hint… Feeling a sense of camaraderie in a life of persecution. It’s quite evident that it’s the ‘Dark Elf’ race.

Kidd and Luger also heard the story told to the Dark Elf elder. Misunderstood and persecuted, the pitiful race had to retreat far, far away, even to the unexplored lands—the Dark Elves.

Among the NPC races of the old continent, only the Dark Elves can feel such camaraderie. Naturally, the probability of it being Kaztor is exponentially high when considering specific individuals.

Kaztor, in order to dispel the misunderstandings about the Dark Elf race, conducted precise investigations and left the tribe to make its members free and happy.

‘Fleeing at least 100 years ago, wandering for 50 years on the old continent, researching, and then successfully arriving after estimating the location of the new continent 50 years ago. Is that how we should see it?’

It goes without saying that it was impressive. No NPC race had thought about the new continent, but how did he pinpoint this place and move here?

‘At that time, he already had magical skills beyond dragon level. The hint that he shaped dragons with mana and showed them to them suggests some connection between Kaztor and dragons. Of course, it could have been just a ‘show’ to captivate their interest, but…’

He couldn’t know the relationship between Kaztor and the dragons. However, it was a fact that 50 years ago, he was powerful at the level of dragons.

The Dark Elves, who couldn’t find a proper ship, would have come here using mana. Considering that, Kidd also knew that it would require being at least ‘Ancient Gold Dragon Bailephus’ level.

He wondered what it felt like.

Kidd briefly imagined Kaztor. He would have had as much knowledge in mana. Within the Dark Elf tribe, he was set to be called a ‘genius.’

What kind of research did he conduct after coming to the new continent? Why did he come here for research, and why did he show such mercy to the Gorilla Paleos, feeling camaraderie with them?

“Showing mercy… Mercy? Is it really because of mercy? Or…”

Kidd glanced at the smiling Harhei, who seemed to be in a good mood. Then he asked, “What did you do for that friend, Harhei?”

“What?! I did nothing. I just helped him find the place he wanted and occasionally assisted him when he asked for help. In return, I received this spacious underground space and various technologies. It’s quite fortunate, I must say.”

“When he asked for help occasionally, what did he want?”

“… Nothing!”

“Oh, no. It seems like unnecessary meddling. I apologize.”

When Harhei made a stern face, Kidd quickly lowered his head. Personal intimacy couldn’t be confirmed numerically unless the notification window popped up, but he could roughly estimate it from his long Middle Earth life.

(To be continued…)
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 Kidd estimated that his current intimacy with the Gorilla Paleos NPCs was roughly around 80%.

“Even at this level, if I can’t get answers, it seems I’ll have to wait until it reaches 100%. Sigh… I guess I have to keep chatting for a couple more hours. There’s no other way.”

But Kidd had to do it. Glancing at the friend window, Kidd saw that Luger was still on the surface, and Leeha was wandering around the underground city.

“I’ve taken the first step. When dealing with specific NPC races, the one with the most information is naturally the boss. You should have targeted Harhei. Hoho.”

Kidd opened the bag again and started a conversation with Harhei. He needed to reach 100% intimacy as soon as possible. This was especially crucial to unlock Kaztor’s Laboratory No. 7.

“Sigh, sigh.”

“Can we do more? We can’t even see the forms of the Rhinodilos properly now. Maybe we should continue tomorrow—”

“No. It’s not allowed. Three more. Just three more to catch.”

“But if something goes wrong even once, our tribe is in danger.”

“Then I’ll bet my life on it. Please, eldest hyung.”

Luger was so desperate that he even used the phrase “please.”

As the moonlight faded, not only the pitch-black gorilla paleos but also the pitch-black rhynodilos were barely visible.

It was crucial to maximize sensitivity and shoot, much like shooting without seeing them properly. The proposal to act as bait for aggro had been made for the sake of the tribe, but Luger stubbornly clung to his pride.

“Now, it’s just three more to go. Kidd may be a blockhead, but since he’s with Harhei, he’s surely steadily making progress. Leeha… What can that idiot do? Is he still wandering inside the city after more than twelve hours, unable to figure out how to increase intimacy?”

Luger quickly checked the friend window and laughed.

“If Leeha fails, the only competitor is Kidd. Moreover, I have only three left. If they respawn once, it’ll be over.”

Kugugugugug…

Finally, a vibration came!

Luger revealed his white teeth and loaded the bullets.

“Three! Just three more, and we can teleport immediately! Trust me, big hyung!”


“Got it. Everyone, prepare to return! Be prepared for any situation!”

“Lowland!”

“Lowland!”

Two Gorilla Paleos, other than the eldest hyung, stood by Luger.

Gwaa, gwaa!

What emerged from the ground were four Rhinodilos! It was good news for Luger.

“Che, Ha Leeha, if you have nothing to do, you should have come up and helped.”

However, at the last moment, Luger hesitated. If he mistakenly hit the gorilla paleos NPC… it would undoubtedly result in instant death. That would likely bring the intimacy he had built up so far to rock bottom.

Only then did Luger appreciate the presence of Leeha. It was a moment when a companion who could be the ‘eyes in the darkness’ was desperately needed. Especially, memories of teamwork with Leeha when he played the role of the control tower resurfaced.

In the darkness, a perfect time freeze.

Moreover, the precise shots led to perfect hits in the forest filled with trees. This was what Luger wanted the most right now.

“Are you ready, Luger?”

“… Yeah, it’s not the time for such thoughts.”

“Hmm?”

“I’ll finish it in one shot! Huu!”

Luger shook off his weak thoughts and exerted strength. Then he pulled the trigger.

The roar echoed at regular intervals.

One, two, three, and four times.

There were some close calls, but the Gorilla Paleos NPCs were not hit.

Luger had truly exerted more than 150% concentration to barely achieve this.


“… Really, a hundred in just one day…”

“Hehe, hehehe… Of course. I am a man who keeps his promises.”

Luger stood up and extended his hand to the eldest gorilla paleos. Along with the quest completion notification, a triumphant sound echoed in his mind. Bam!

“Therefore, we have come all the way to this distant, distant new continent.”

“Ukit! Ukit! It was fun! It was an interesting human! Humans are truly amusing!”

Ugly Harhei clapped with both hands and even clapped with his feet. Clap^^!

With the resounding applause, Pangpang also echoed in Kidd’s mind.

Finally, they achieved 100% intimacy. Without receiving any special quests, they managed to reach this level through various methods of gift attacks and increasing favorability. Compared to users without know-how, who take a week or more just to improve their relationship with a specific group through proper communication with human tribes, the accomplishment of the Three Musketeers was quite speedy!

“I know that spending a tremendous amount of money doesn’t make it fair. I also know that achieving this even after trying various methods to increase favorability and gift attacks is still slower compared to ‘The user closest to NPCs, dame Shin Nara.’ But, hehe, at least this time, I won.”

Bam!

After the resonating Pangpar sound subsided, Kidd checked the notification.

Achievement: Underground Gorilla(B+)

Congratulations! You have successfully gained complete intimacy with Harhei and his Paleos on the Erika continent. Your outstanding achievement in fostering trust between Paleos in the Erika continent, where interaction among Paleos is minimal, will be widely recognized.

Reward: Strength +13, agility +2, erica Continent Common Fame +15

“B+ grade only, huh… Ha Leeha said that Aibex and Hudid were around A-grade, it seems.”

Kidd had heard that abilities varied depending on the mystical creature. It was natural for the grade of the achievement to change based on the mystical creature’s abilities.

In the midst of this, it was puzzling that the achievement grades for Aibex and Hudid were not explicitly mentioned.

Although they handled bows, their forms were that of gorillas. It was an achievement that mainly boosted strength, which wouldn’t be particularly beneficial for Kidd.

“Well, it’s better than nothing. Above all, it’s the first in the Hall of Fame—”

Kwaaaah!


The door to the sanctuary where Harhei resided opened abruptly.

“Ukit?! Ukkak! Who dares—”

“Stop, Luger! Even if it’s you, such disgrace cannot be tolerated in front of the Guardian Deity!”

Amidst the tumultuous sounds of Harhei’s outrage, another voice could be heard in the background. Though dimly lit, Kidd recognized the silhouette of the big hyung Gorilla Paleos. And the person being scolded by the big hyung Gorilla Paleos.

Even in the subdued lighting, it was clear enough who had forcefully opened the door as if ready to break it down.

“Damn it, where is that arrogant Ha Leeha! It said it’s near the Guardian Deity’s residence!”

“Luger… What are you doing?”

“Kidd, this idiot!”

“Idiot? Do you want wind holes all over your body?”

Kidd was getting annoyed too. Luger’s reckless mode, not seen for a while, was indeed hard to adapt to.

“I don’t want to hear lectures from someone who hasn’t even achieved the achievement yet! Bring Ha Leeha here!”

“Who hasn’t achieved the achievement yet? I’m number one—no, huh?”

Luger, spouting frustration like a drunkard, uttered a sentence that struck clearly into Kidd’s ears.

‘Someone who hasn’t achieved the achievement yet.’

Did he really just say that?

The one who said those words should have achieved the achievement, shouldn’t they? Kidd hastily checked the achievement window that they had neglected to look at.

Achievement: Underground Gorilla

The third registrant for the achievement. The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the hall of fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect:

Strength +26

Agility +4

Erika Continent Common Fame +30

“Hell, god! Third place!”

“Hmm? Did you really achieve it? Well, even if you did, being in last place is natural. Did you think you could be first with that trickery?”

Although it was called a trick, Kidd, who had achieved 100% intimacy at an incredible speed, couldn’t really refute Luger’s words.

In reality, Kidd was the third registrant. Essentially, wasn’t Kidd in the last place among the three musketeers?

“Then, Luger, you’re first—no… Is the reason you’re looking for Leeha…”

Kidd could understand Luger’s frustration.

The reason Luger, who tried to raise intimacy with the most risky action, was in a frenzy had only one explanation.

Thump, thump, thump.

Amidst the chaos of Luger causing a commotion at the Guardian Deity’s residence and Luger rampaging, a quiet footstep spread.

“Hey, perfect timing, everyone? While I was coming this way, I saw Luger jumping in. How… did everyone achieve the achievement? Did you hit 100% intimacy?”

With a calm expression, Leeha opened his mouth while placing a sleeping Bronze Dragon Hatchling on top of his head.

Hahee.

Both Luger and Kidd shouted simultaneously.

Leeha’s attitude was enough to thoroughly understand their situation. After all, he had been silent until now to surprise them!

“Kik, so who’s complaining? Obviously, I’m going to be the first one.”

Luger, who had risked dealing with the rhynodilos, was second. Kidd, who had endured financial bleeding and offered all kinds of tributes to Hahee, was third.

How in the world did Leeha manage to be first?

“What kind of trick did you use? I’ve never seen you outside…”

“Yes, indeed. Moreover, with the boss Harhei here, how did you, Ha Leeha, manage to be so fast?”

Luger and Kidd rushed toward Leeha in disagreement.

Looking at their determined expressions, Leeha barely held back his laughter.

“If I were to give you a hint, it’s the same for both humans and paleos. There’s only one way to quickly gain love.”

“What on earth is that? If you don’t tell us quickly, I’ll blow everything around your mouth away. You won’t be able to speak again—”

“Oh? If it comes to that, you won’t be able to talk at all, right? Kik, do as you please~ Give it a try.”

Leeha leaned his face toward the jaws of the Cobalt Blue Python. Luger tried to pull it away, but there was no way he could really pull it.

The laughter of the victor echoed loudly from the Guardian Deity’s residence of the Gorilla Paleos a moment later.

Leeha’s secret to achieving 100% familiarity the fastest was, in a way, quite obvious.

‘The fastest way to gain love from people? Obviously, it’s feeding them! I’m not the richest person in the city, but managing just the nearby ten miles is enough.’

Whether it’s a person or an animal, the most reliable method is to fill their stomachs, as Leeha thought.

Leeha: Is that so?

Nara: Of course. But can Leeha-ssi do that?

Leeha: Hehe, come to think of it, I’ve never treated Nara-ssi. I’ll treat you next time.

Nara: Really?! Oh… then do it outside Middle Earth, not in Middle Earth. Can you do it outside?

Leeha: Huh? Outside? Well… the ingredients are different, so you might need to get used to it, but I think it should be possible. Probably.

Nara: Wow, really, really? You’ll do it? I heard that you’ve become popular as a charming guy lately, Leeha-ssi.

Shin Nara’s excited voice echoed in Leeha’s mind. It was quite a pleasant resonance, but still a bit embarrassing.

Leeha: Hmm… I didn’t learn it to become a charming guy, but thanks for the information anyway!

Nara: I’m really thankful. The red goat already reached 100%, and now I’m on my way to the black cranes. I’ll have to visit those gorillas later. Thank you, Leeha-ssi!

Leeha: Uh, oh, yes.

Leeha finished whispering with Shin Nara.

Despite having a pleasant conversation, the farewell was somewhat unsatisfactory.

‘He already reached 100% with the Red Goat? Unbelievable…’

Even Leeha found it hard to believe what had happened. What kind of strategy did she use to raise it so quickly? However, he didn’t want to ask that much. If he became closer to Shin Nara someday, he would naturally find out.

“We just need to focus on our tasks. Blaugrunn, are you ready?!”

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

“Pick out ingredients that gorilla paleo friends will like, and especially ones that Blaugrunn thinks are the most delicious and fresh! Particularly those with a good ‘scent’!”

『Kyuu, Kyuu-!』

Blaugrunn fluttered around Leeha’s head in a restless manner.

(To be continued…)
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 Why bother spending gems? Is it necessary? With just one gem, you can buy so many ingredients!

“To make dishes and win the absolute love of the crowd!”

Leeha, along with Blaugrunn, roamed around Underground City, purchasing ingredients. The assumption that most of the ingredients would be unfamiliar held true, but even Blaugrunn’s nose couldn’t be deceived.

Locating Bluebeard and sensing approaching monsters, his keen intuition also applied to food. Just the sight of Leeha carrying ingredients garnered enough attention from gorilla paleoNPCs.

A first-time encounter with a new species, carrying a strange bird on his head while loaded with ingredients – it was sufficient to pique the interest of the gorilla paleoNPCs.

“Jellypong, are you still okay?”

『Mongmongmongmong…』

“When it’s all done, I’ll feed you too, so help me out.”

Jellypong’s eyes blinked all around. Initially creepy, Leeha had become quite accustomed to it.

Having purchased all the ingredients and even a few cooking utensils, a spectacle was unfolding in the gorilla paleo square.

“Okay. For the fire- um, to light the fire… Everyone, please step back a bit! More, more! Alright, enjoy the show~”

Gathering the purchased firewood, Leeha ignited the fire. The reason Blaugrunn was chirping on Leeha’s head became apparent.

“Flame Thrower!”

Rooooooar————!

“Woo-oo, wookeeeeee——!”

“Wugak! The fire- wookee, woogat!”

Using a flame flame thrower device to ignite the fire for cooking! The gorilla paleos were initially startled, fleeing in surprise, but soon gathered again, showing curiosity.

“Hehe, where are you going? Well, then, let’s infuse the aroma with a grilled dish.”

Leeha quickly and skillfully prepared the ingredients. Purchasing the ingredients wasn’t just for cooking. 

‘I’ve roughly identified the types, forms, and characteristics of animals in the vicinity.’


Considering that they had a lot of meat with firm muscles and that they lived in the area just above the Underground City, which was an open area consisting of grassland, would undoubtedly be similar to horses.

” It’s a bit low in fat, but the chewiness is quite good. The unique gamey smell, hmm, let’s give it a try.”

『Kyuuuuuu…』

Blaugrunn saw what Leeha picked up, but this time, Leeha’s stubbornness won.

Chiiiiing!

The smell of grilling meat filled the air. What initially smelled slightly, with the addition of spices, transformed into a savory aroma.

『Kyuu? Kyuukyyu!』

“Mmm, smells good. It’s not bad like this, right? Originally, these individually might be difficult to eat, but when mixed, it captures the aroma effectively.”

What Leeha took out and added was the yellow fluid from the cut leg of the Rhinodilo. It seemed similar to amberjack fish sauce, and it turned out to be a great combination.

The grilled meat was sourced locally, and the soup, brewed with a rich broth, was enhanced with fruits received from the red goats and black crane paleos. Adding a variety of spices from the old continent and the new continent, Leeha silently recited a skill.

“Soul Link.”

Whoooooa———!

The exploding red light surprised the gorilla paleoNPCs. No matter how bright artificial light is, it can’t compare to natural light on the ground!

The light generated by Koma could be seen anywhere in the Zijeru city.

“Kuwaaa—hyup!”

“Yes, yes. The meat is cooked. Koma can have a bite too.”

Leeha stuffed a piece of meat into the roaring Koma’s mouth. Koma’s eyes widened in surprise as it transformed significantly.

“Kuum, kuum… kuing. Koma, ignite the fire.”

“Kkuong.”

Whoosh!


Koma, having enjoyed a tasty bite of meat, soon transformed into a fire bear.

The gorilla paleoNPCs, who had been watching cautiously, exclaimed, “Oh!” once again.

“The food is ready! The ‘Neon Sign’ is ready! 『Ha Restaurant』 is open! Come on, everyone hungry, come in! It’s free, it’s free! Enjoy the delicious food and fill your stomachs warmly!”

Chop, chop!

It was a kind of proclamation.

Seeing the enormous amount of dishes Leeha prepared, the gorilla paleos, who had been eagerly awaiting, began rushing over like lightning.

“There’s plenty! I made plenty, so come on in! It’s overflowing, so come on in! Taste the skill that you can only experience at the Holy Grill, the best restaurant in the Lope Continent!”

The plates looked like shabby wooden branches, but the contents were of the utmost taste!

Leeha suddenly thought of Candle Castle’s restaurant. Who would have known that he would make use of the cooking skills learned from Madame Ju’s sister, loo, and her adorable Kiyo-Mifgar?

Leeha’s name quickly spread throughout the Underground City.

The speed at which familiarity built up was faster than the rate at which food ran out.

Even while treating the gorilla paleos, Koma and Blaugrunn growled at each other, eager to eat the remaining ingredients. However, the unexpected winner was the gelatinous substance resembling jelly that popped out suddenly.

Yet, neither Koma nor Blaugrunn went hungry.

“You’ve also got yours, of course. Eat, eat! Especially you, Koma! You need to eat a lot.”

Knowing that Koma could be fed and that the fire bear contracted with the elemental spirit could develop on its own, Leeha felt the need to take even better care of them than he did now.

Koma enjoyed a momentary, albeit temporary, peaceful world, free from the threat of hunting or the need to dedicate offerings since becoming Leeha’s Soul Mate.

“Well, that’s how it is.”

“Cooking… just cooking—”

“Just cooking? Haven’t you studied more than that, Luger?”

“What?!”


“Think about why the French Revolution happened. How can you not know that as a fellow European? ‘If there’s no bread, give them meat〜’ Don’t you know that? Cooking, or in other words, filling people’s stomachs, is not just ‘just.'”

“… Are you talking about Marie Antoinette? But, the statement you just made is a manipulated rumor—”

“Anyway, you’re ignorant. Don’t you agree, Kidd?”

“Well… I have nothing to say.”

Until Leeha and Luger bickered, Kidd couldn’t shake off the shock. Who would have known that he, spending the most resources and gaining familiarity the slowest, would end up like this?

Beside them, Luger was trying to shake off the accusation of being ignorant, attempting to lecture Leeha on European history, but Leeha dismissed it lightly.

As soon as the Three Musketeers gathered, Harhei was watching with a complex expression.

“As expected! As expected, friends of that friend! Wuaaat!”

“Right? So you can tell us. We are not here to cause any harm to Harhei and the paleos.”

Hearing Leeha’s words, the large gorilla paleo, standing by, nodded.

All three of them reached 100% familiarity in less than 12 hours.

Well, looking only at Leeha’s case, it took less than 8 hours.

Kidd was still mumbling to himself, not fully recovering from the shock, all because of that incident.

“You can trust us. Please guide us to the ‘place’ that our ‘friend’ visited 50 years ago and 20 years ago. We will find what our ‘friend’ left behind, and we will return it to him.”

Unlike when talking to Luger or Kidd, Leeha’s statement was devoid of playfulness.

Her significantly serious voice echoed quietly but meaningfully throughout the realm of the guardian deity.

“Wukit, wukikit!”

Harhei seemed to ponder for a moment. Then, he suddenly started moving on the jungle Jim.

Up, down, down, up, as if playing, the once-sullen ape guardian deity roamed around for a while before descending in front of the Three Musketeers.

“Alright. Good. As much as that friend did for us, you’ve also done for us. We should be able to give you something in return. Eldest!”

“Lowland!”

“Guide them to that place.”

“… Lowland!”

The large gorilla paleo hesitated for a moment, but he couldn’t disobey the command of the deity.

Leeha clenched her fist tightly.

Finally, they crossed a hurdle. The only thing left was the entrance to the Kaztor 7th Research Laboratory!

Leeha: Both of you remember the bet, right? The first step is mine. If you even stick out a toe first, I’ll blow you away with Black Bass. Well, I’m not worried about our esteemed Kidd and Luger breaking their promises.

As Leeha whispered, Luger and Kidd, who had quieted down, trembled again.

It’s strange how their appearance, which seems foolish and kind enough to look like a fool to other users, is so sharp and good at teasing each other like this when they are the Musketeers. It was evidence of the strong camaraderie and comradeship, the sense of rivalry among the three.

“This is it. The space that our ‘friend’ used 50 years ago when he was with us.”

The Musketeers stood in front of the stairs at the outermost part of Underground City, accompanied by the large gorilla paleo.

Compared to the gorilla paleo’s efforts to raise and expand Underground City, this space seemed untouched, as if saying ‘end.’

“Is this the place our ‘friend’ visited 20 years ago at the same time?”

“No, 20 years ago, our friend visited us, but he didn’t come to this space.”

“But earlier he clearly said he came—”

“Coming to Underground City and visiting this space are different stories, Luger.”

“Uh, well, uh-huh, hehehe.”

Luger, instead of trying to refute, quickly pretended to cough. The expression of the large gorilla paleo was not incorrect.

Why didn’t he come here when he visited 20 years ago?

Unlike Kidd or Luger, Leeha could think of different thoughts with just one word.

‘He probably didn’t need to. If that’s the case, there’s only one reason.’

There was no need to visit this laboratory anymore. Why?

‘For research… Probably, he successfully concluded his research.’

What was Kaztor’s research? If his goal could be summarized in one word, it was the 『Revival of the Dark Elf race.』

The Dark Elf race, persecuted and wandering in search of a refuge. The elder of the Dark Elf race mentioned that Kaztor was trying to find a way for their race to regain the light.

For that research, Kaztor had gathered all the long-standing records of the Dark Elves and left to gather external information that could not be obtained internally.

Of course, if there was no internal data, they couldn’t know all the records and information of their own race. Therefore, he took all the internal data with him to find out more about the external world.

Then, wandering around the continent, perhaps even to the New Continent, he combined the external world’s information and methods with internal data to find the most certain way for the Dark Elf race to revive.

‘Well, it’s a game, so getting stronger is probably the goal. It could be a method to make the entire Dark Elf race stronger… There were also words like the ‘Sword of the God’ in the 6th laboratory, and words about ‘suppressing demons.’ If the minority race, the Dark Elves, want to avoid persecution from the majority races like the Wood Elves or humans, they just need to become overwhelmingly stronger than them. The only problem is…’

The method of becoming stronger, and the consequences after becoming stronger. How, how strong, and through what actions is he trying to achieve the revival of the Dark Elves?

In front of the stairs leading further underground, Leeha looked at the large gorilla paleo.

“Are you not coming?”

“I won’t go from here. I’ll guard this place until you return.”

“Well, something seems to go wrong when you insist on doing that.”

“Our friend told us how to get here and requested protection. It should be safe inside.”

“Huh? What…”

“Indeed… Is that so?”

Leeha chuckled at the words of the large gorilla paleo, but Kidd, on the contrary, nodded his head.

Leeha realized that, in exchange for teaching them spatial movement, Kaztor had obtained not only the hiding of the laboratory’s location but also a guard duty.

(To be continued…)
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 Observing Kidd’s attitude and the firm conviction of the eldest gorilla paleao, Leeha eventually decided to accept and follow.

“Okay. Since Kidd seems to know something, we can trust him. Let’s go.”

Leeha took the first step. The passage was so narrow that only one person could barely enter. It was notably different from the 6th laboratory; there was only one direction, no maze-like structure, and no traps.

There were occasional lights along the way. Leeha could roughly sense that there were no measures in place to prevent outsiders.

Above all, it wasn’t deep. Even considering that other laboratories had a dungeon-like feel and grandeur, this place was remarkably ordinary. It could be seen as a simple basement, at most going down to the 2nd or 3rd underground floor.

Finally, Leeha, Kidd, and Luger discovered a door.

“Well, let’s just keep it open if it was meant for personal use. Why bother adding another door?”

“The moment you touch the door, lightning strikes excessively, and then I’ll… deal with you, Ha Leeha.”

“Don’t talk nonsense, Luger.”

The firmly closed door had a regular handle.

While Luger joked and Kidd laughed, Leeha remained serious.

“It’s really not going to happen, right?”

Getting hit in the back of the head at the last moment made Leeha worry about it now. Leeha reached out with courage, grabbed the doorknob, and pushed.

Creak…

The door opened without any issues. At the same time, pa-ah! The light inside illuminated.

“Even though it was made 50 years ago…”

“Is it a mana system that can still operate?”

Luger and Kidd, not to mention Leeha, couldn’t help but be surprised as they looked inside. The laboratory emitting bright light was quite neat compared to other places. The items inside seemed to be well-preserved.

“Ready?”

“If you’re not mentally prepared by now…”


“Then it’s okay to give up. I’ll go first.”

“Don’t be ridiculous! I’m going first!”

As Kidd was about to step forward solemnly, Leeha lightly pushed his chest, taking the first step.

Clang!

The moment Leeha’s foot touched the ground, a loud noise echoed in his head. Bubam!

『Achievement: First Discovery – Kaztor’s Laboratory No. 7 (A)』

Congratulations! You have discovered a mysterious location. Laboratory No. 7, where Dark Elf Kaztor conducted his research, is well-preserved compared to other labs. You need to figure out what he did after crossing the continent to find this new research place. Time is running out.

Reward: 34 stat points

(No Hall of Fame achievement)

“Ah… right. Come to think of it, no. 6 seemed to have achieved the achievement simultaneously, but Kidd and Luger…”

“At the same time? Who raised their foot with such an idiot? If you’re that stupid, I should have sneakily stepped on it too.”

“I agree.”

“Well, okay. Since you say that, it seems you didn’t achieve the achievement. Heh, I’ll let you curse at least once.”

Leeha suddenly recalled the moment when he discovered Laboratory No. 6 but looking back, the situation was different now. Unlike the past when Fernand, Jin Gonggong, and Leeha all raised their feet simultaneously, allowing all three to gain the achievement without a Hall of Fame, this time Leeha clearly achieved the achievement alone. When Kidd and Luger came in afterward, no achievement was generated.

“Even when things are tough, Middle Earth is surprisingly lenient at times. Strictly speaking, the concept of ‘simultaneous’ doesn’t exist, and even though… at least among party members – Leeha was only in a party with Jin Gonggong at that time, not with Fernand, he remembered – the intention might have been not to pick a fight.”

In any case, Leeha was satisfied with the stat points he gained alone and carefully read the details of the achievement.

“Um.”

“What is it?”

“Hurry up. Do you think you’ll get an answer by whining endlessly?”

“No, wait a bit, please.”


Leeha, a step behind Kidd and Luger urging him, checked the document again. When he recalled opening Kaztor’s Laboratory No. 6, he also remembered the achievement at that time.

“It’s different. The wording is definitely different. Instead of the usual ‘Be careful of ancient dust’ or ‘Beware of the Guardian’, there was something different… I couldn’t confirm, but it would have been the same for Labs 1-5. It was natural to assume that most labs on the Lope continent would have the same wording.”

“There is an additional expression in the achievement wording itself, like ‘crossing the continent’, and a straightforward mention that it’s different from other labs.

‘Then, what is the meaning of this last sentence?”

『You must understand everything. Time is running out.』

Leeha somehow felt his heart pounding. The more he knew, the more dangerous Kaztor seemed. He also hesitated whether to tell Kidd and Luger about this or keep it to himself.

Leeha took a deep breath, looking alternately at the eyes of the two.

“Sigh… How long are you going to hesitate about some secret in the achievement description?”

“… You’re not going to tell us, are you?”

Luger and Kidd urged Leeha again.

In reality, Leeha wanted to shout it out immediately. It would be better to face it head-on. But, it was a dilemma.

However, Leeha held back.

“First, let’s see what information is inside. Let’s find out and talk about it later.”

With a serious expression, Leeha turned and walked inside, leaving Kidd and Luger to organize their thoughts.

It was clear that this laboratory was extremely important, and there was a strong assumption that something crucial was included in the achievement description.

“Damn it. He’s really holding it back.”

“Holding it back until it turns into shit.”

Of course, they didn’t forget to add a few remarks, and they also moved their feet into Laboratory No. 7.

“There seems to be quite a bit of data… It will be difficult to read it all in a day.”

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger each started rummaging through the laboratory in different directions.


The number of books on the shelves was considerable, and there were quite a few rolled-up scrolls. Not to mention the clear traces of magic circles on the floor, indicating that something experimental had definitely taken place, which was intriguing.

Where should they start examining?

Leeha chose a scroll, Kidd headed toward the magic circle, and Luger grabbed the nearest book within reach.

“Better than nothing, right? Hm?”

Then, he frowned.

“Why? What’s wrong?”

“… Damn it. Middle Earth is Middle Earth.”

“What’s up with that?”

In response to Luger’s words, Leeha and Kidd approached him, examining the books. From their reactions, Luger could understand the reason for his grim expression.

“What’s this? How do you read it?”

“Just when I thought I had gathered a lot of information… It’s unreadable characters…”

All three of them had the same reaction. The content of the books was filled with intricate and unreadable characters.

“Are the other books like this too? No way, all of them?”

“If that’s the case, it’s ultimately just a fantasy-”

Leeha and Kidd quickly dispersed, flipping through the books and scrolls. As they opened more and more, their expressions darkened. Some books were readable, but the majority contained characters that couldn’t be understood.

“What! There are so many, but only a few are readable. With this, we might have slightly more information than what was left in No. 6.”

“Hmm… If it’s like this, then—No, no, no… That’s right.”

“Ah, I see. That’s how it is.”

At that moment, the expressions of the three, who were rummaging through the documents randomly, gradually changed. Unreadable? Why couldn’t they read it?

All three of them had experience visiting the royal record office of the Fibiel Kingdom. There, Leeha, Kidd, and Luger had sifted through various documents in their own ways.

At that time, every document in the vast royal record office of the Fibiel Kingdom was ‘readable.’ They had learned that Middle Earth, in contrast, didn’t bother making books for interior design.

So why was there a mix of readable and unreadable content now? What was their task at hand?

The three closed their mouths, and then quickly checked their respective quest windows.

Of course, they were all looking at the same content.

『Retrieve the lost records of the Dark Elves

Content: Collection and return of Dark Elf data, including the journal of “Arcane Sniper.”

‘This is Dark Elf data. Information that Kastor took out a hundred years ago, even older records! Ancient books passed down from the Dark Elves! If it’s natural that current human users can’t understand these characters, the significance of this item’s existence is—’

Leeha’s pupils twitched again.

From that direction, Kidd was already looking at Leeha’s eyes.

Luger’s fingers twitched, making a very subtle movement. It was a signal.

Paaaat———-!

“Let go of everything! I entered first, so everything is mine!”

“If you got the achievement, that would be enough! I will clear the quest!”

“You fools! Do you eat books with your mouths?”

The three simultaneously scattered, indiscriminately sweeping unreadable documents into their bags. They had to gather whatever they could since they didn’t know how much was needed to satisfy the clear conditions.

“Hey, Jellypong! Sweep up all the books!”

『Mongmongmong……!』

“Ch-ch— that’s cheating!”

The book Kidd was trying to grab stuck to Jellypong’s arm like glue!

“What’s with this jellyfish?”

Luger’s situation was no different.

As he tried to sweep documents randomly into his bag, just before they entered, Jellypong pulled them out one by one like fishing.

“That thief!”

“Thieves are those who take it. Jellypong! Put them here, here! Well done.”

Leeha, after sweeping a torrent of documents into his bag, patted Jellypong on the head. Although it felt somewhat squishy, looking at his smiling eyes, it must have been a mood-improving gesture.

“Whew… Have we roughly swept everything up?”

Feeling rather relieved that there were few bullets left, Leeha filled his bag to the brim with books. As they had caused quite a ruckus, the interior of Kastor’s research lab now felt eerily quiet. Now, all that remained were the readable documents.

“Nobody caught the bastard who dared to read recklessly, right? If caught, I’ll blow off their arms and legs.”

“I believe there’s no one so ruthless and foolish.”

“Why, why are you both looking at me? Did I catch it? Seriously, it’s unbelievable.”

Leeha playfully scolded Kidd and Luger while counting the remaining number of documents.

While it seemed like they were acting indiscriminately, on the other hand, he suddenly thought that this competition might be the most efficient way to unlock the secrets of Kastor’s research lab.

“If we had to catch unreadable things one by one, it would have just wasted our time… After considering them as quest items, we grabbed everything, and now, we interpret what we can read collectively?! How fast and efficient is this?”

Perhaps having similar thoughts, the three of them exchanged meaningful glances, still playing in the hands of Middle Earth in various ways.

“Now, let’s read them one by one. Naturally, starting with this, right?”

Excluding the unreadable documents, Leeha moved towards the scattered remaining papers, some of which were clustered together.

He stepped toward that spot, and Kidd and Luger nodded in agreement.

“That’s right. There’s nothing easier to understand about that person than his diary.”

“In that case, this is the first one.”

Documents recorded by date.

Among them, Luger picked up the one with the earliest date.

(To be continued…)
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 『Finally found a place to settle. It took quite some time to get here through the redwood forest to meet them, but I believe it’s a safe choice. Since arriving here, the creatures I observed, like goats and cranes, have had no deficiencies. Creatures with no deficiencies are bound to betray at some point.

For the appearance alone, Harhei and the paleos, who used to roam around only because they were in charge of labor, express infinite gratitude towards me. A mystical creature that can’t even be considered a mystical creature. It’s a small cave made with magic in the weakest spot, but it will be a comfortable refuge for them. Especially with the magic of labor enhancement, it might transform into a vast underground city according to their will…

But I have no intention of helping them to that extent. The deal ends here. My tribe also survived with its own strength. The weak are destined to perish. By now, I wonder what my tribe is doing. I need to finish the research quickly. Now that I have settled, all that remains is to immerse myself.』

“Indeed. It was Kaztor who taught them spatial teleportation. A fascinating trade.”

“Heh, he even made the underground space for them. At that time, it was just a narrow cave.”

Speculation and confirmation are different. They had a rough estimate, but the sheer joy and satisfaction when it became perfect were incomparable. When Luger and Leeha had proud expressions, Kidd nodded with a slightly different feeling.

“As expected.”

“What do you mean by ‘as expected’?”

“Sympathy… that’s why.”

“Why are you suddenly talking like that?”

“No, nothing.”

Kaztor teaching Harhei and the gorilla paleos about spatial teleportation, and bringing them here was already known. Kidd, however, was puzzled about the reason behind it.

‘Considering the character setting of Kaztor, there’s no way he would accept a ‘deal’ without hesitation. Choosing them might be due to some empathy for the persecuted and wandering Dark Elf race.’

The ugly Harhei probably led his few Paleos, not even receiving divine treatment, as mentioned in the diary. Encountering them by chance, Kaztor probably proposed a deal, resulting in the current situation. Kidd fully understood this setup.

“Quickly move on to the next one. So why exactly did he come here?”

“Wait a bit.”

At Leeha’s urging, Luger placed a scroll with the nearest date in the middle. Just as speculated, they can completely transform their appearance without using mana. The fact that goats and cranes behaved like that in the forest with red trees wasn’t due to the terrain.

『It was clear that it was a different structure from polymorph or metamorphosis. Their ability remained unchanged both on the surface and underground. Even at a considerable distance from Harhei, they maintained their transformed state.

How? If it’s about receiving the energy of a specific object like a guardian deity or mystical creature and being able to use it autonomously, there should be changes based on the distance… This might be the keyword.

First, I would like to apply it to them.』


“You provided space underground, taught teleportation magic, and learned at most this transformation?”

“No, it’s a somewhat ‘special’ transformation, I’d say.”

“Both polymorph and metamorphosis are transformation-related skills.”

“There seems to be some keyword for not using mana.”

Although Leeha, Kidd, and Luger exchanged glances, it was difficult for them to understand why Kaztor needed transformation at the moment. Above all, it was a slightly surprising clue for Leeha.

‘Mana freeze definitely had an effect on the black cranes… They tried to transform, but couldn’t. But it’s not using mana?’

Then what about Black Bass’s skill, mana Freeze?

It wasn’t just evaporating mana; it was truly an ability to block all skills at the source.

‘A fitting nickname – Tyrant, Predator.’

Increased confidence in his weapon.

Leeha, unable to completely hide his proud expression, finally revealed the story about another clue.

“What does it mean to apply it? Did he try to conduct some kind of human experiment?”

“Haha, the attitude of not caring about means and methods for the sake of goals is admirable.”

“Well, feeling empathy – no, the NPC set up like that, having excessive empathy, is doubtful.”

The three organized their thoughts again and picked up the next scroll. The dates had passed considerably.

『It didn’t resonate with them either. Before transformation, after transformation. Although they had a structure quite similar to humans, they were still different.

Is it because there’s something I’m missing? No, that couldn’t be. All the transmitted data exclusive to our compatriots has been thoroughly searched. Rumors like the Wood Elf maidens and the nonsense of humans with missing thumbs were sufficiently verified and re-examined.

Then it’s certain. Humans… only humans. But humans are unreliable… eventually, a decision has to be made. After all, isn’t that why I came here? I was momentarily shaken by seeing a new race. Kaztor, gather your thoughts. In the end, there is only one way.』

“Um.”

“His hatred for Wood Elves or humans is immense. Well, it’s understandable.”


“The meaning of having only one way is not clear, but it seems like a firm decision at this point.”

Now, there were only two scrolls left. Although quite some time had passed compared to the previous ones, there was still a considerable time difference between the two scrolls. Leeha and Luger’s pupils dilated as they quickly skimmed through the scrolls.

“Wha… what is this? This… does this mean what I think it does?”

“No, wait! That’s not important. What’s written below-”

Kidd also wanted to point out their excitement, but he too fell silent while looking at the lengthy scroll he had picked up.

“The origin… was here.”

The answer that no one could be sure of and was only speculated upon was written here.

『Today is a memorable day. It’s not just because almost 20 years have passed since coming here. It’s not because the somewhat narrow cave has expanded. It’s because I finally succeeded in the experiment. Although there were some unstable times, it was unmistakable. Clearly, for a certain period, I had achieved exactly what I wanted.

Now, everything is over. If that event didn’t happen, I would have decided right away today. However… it didn’t go as planned. At the very last moment, I hesitated. No, perhaps this is the last chance created by my utmost effort.

There seemed to be some signal connecting to the mystical creatures.

The reason why Harhei showed extreme signs of anxiety and jumped might be because of that. There were also three strange auras that I vaguely felt.

Demon King’s Fragment…

You can tell without experiencing it.

If they are gathering demonic energy, concentrating, and moving, there is only one possibility.

They are going to cross the sea.

The reason for this is also clear. It’s a reproduction of the Human-Demon War. They plan to initiate the second Human-Demon War.

If… if their goal is to reproduce the Human-Demon War, what choice do I have?』

“Human-Demon War! The Demon King’s army—It’s not like one day the Demon King’s army suddenly appeared. The remnants of demonic power from the Lope Continent didn’t suddenly erupt! Well, of course, there were probably still monsters around—”

“If that’s the case, then it becomes obvious why they fled to the New Continent at the last moment.”

“The birthplace of those rotten bastards was originally here.”


Why did the Demon King’s army suddenly escape to the New Continent after their defeat in the Second Human-Demon War? Because the origin of demonic power was the New Continent Erika! It was natural for remnants of monsters from the Loth Continent to persist after the First Human-Demon War. However, what about the Second Human-Demon War, which was said to have suddenly started one day? It means that the Demon King’s army crossed the Dawn Sea and landed on the Loth Continent to initiate it.

Whether it was annihilated from the sky or emerged from the ground, it wasn’t a vague question.

Of course, according to the Middle Earth setting, there were speculations about the demonic base being across the Dawn Sea, but there was hardly anyone with such clear information other than the three musketeers.

“Bluebeard shattered the Demon King’s Fragment… but if the origin of demonic power is on this continent…”

Gulp. Kidd, who was listening to Leeha’s speculation, swallowed his saliva. Are only the Demon King’s Fragment and Ghibrid and Pyrot Cocri sleeping here?

“… We must somehow prevent the Third Human-Demon War.”

It was evident that there would be even more powerful monsters as they became stronger.

Luger, too, unfolded the last scroll with a tense expression.

Leeha and Kidd’s gaze focused. The last words written on the scroll were too clear in their eyes, despite how unpleasant they were.

『It’s possible… it’s possible! There’s no guarantee it will go smoothly according to the plan, but it can be done. When everything ends successfully, we can finally go to the world of light.

At that time, there will be no fear of the Godslayer’s sword. It will be entirely possible to handle the aftermath after using demonic power.

If only it’s possible. If only we could get the right materials…! Now is not the time. All the information is already stored in my head. What is needed now is not research but action. I’m leaving.

All research on “Arcane Sniper” is complete.

I will cross the sea again and find it there.

The only key to reviving our race.』

“Arcane Sniper!”

“Arcane Sniper—Research, the research is complete?!”

“It’s complete? No, it’s complete—no, it’s—”

Just the words “Arcane Sniper” were astonishing enough, let alone what followed! The Three Musketeers were momentarily stunned, and stuttering was a sufficient expression.

“If all research on Arcane Sniper is complete…”

“Does that mean he unraveled the secret? Damn it, that damn Kaztor guy. Where the hell is he doing all this!”

Crash!

Luger slammed the desk forcefully.

An NPC who knows all the secrets that exist in the world! Moreover, to end the journal like this after chasing his footsteps so closely. If they find him, they might gain enough power to defeat even Alexander, the second promotion after Alexander!

His sense of injustice was fully understood. Leeha, while calming his surprised heart, revisited the journal once again.

“No, fools. When you think about it, it’s not surprising.”

“What?”

“You idiots. You must have done the quest too. You already knew, didn’t you? That there’s a player with an incredible headshot skill against monsters located 10km away, and he’s with the Demon King’s army.”

“… Yes. It was clearly recorded.”

“He probably had a vague idea that it was Arcane Sniper. In that case, it’s not surprising that research on Arcane Sniper is complete. Of course, assuming that it is Arcane Sniper when talking about that time…

During the Second Demon King War, when chasing the retreating Demon King’s army, there was a presence that hindered the footsteps of the Human Alliance. The Three Musketeers are well aware of that fact.

In other words, if there was ‘Arcane Sniper’ at that time?

Considering Kaztor’s research that began 50 years ago, it’s natural to think that it has borne fruit.

Now, looking at the journal, there’s no need to be surprised. However, even if that’s the case, there was still a difficult aspect to accept.

(To be continued…)”
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 “Hold on – that’s strange too. Does that mean Kaztor is currently a member of the Demon King’s army?”

“No, I don’t think that’s the case. He did arrive 20 years ago, but he wasn’t with the Demon King’s army, was he?”

“So, does that mean – hmm… maybe he changed his mind in the meantime?”

Upon hearing Kidd and Luger’s words, lee tilted his head in confusion.

He couldn’t provide a definitive answer himself. Based on the information initially disclosed, this was the limit of the deduction.

1. Kaztor completed his research on Arcane Sniper. (Confirmation)

2-1. An entity presumed to be Arcane Sniper is in the Demon King’s army. (Speculation)

2-2. The presumed entity might be one of the former Three Musketeers, either Brown or Elizabeth. (Speculation)

However, with such hints, it was impossible to conclusively deduce that ‘3. Therefore, Kaztor must belong to the Demon King’s army. (Illogical).’

‘There’s also no definitive evidence to assert with certainty that Kaztor is Arcane Sniper! Despite his monstrous sniping skill over a distance of 10km, which would make anyone think he is Arcane Sniper, hmm…… Kaztor himself isn’t sure either.’

Most importantly, as written in his diary, Kaztor is an NPC with a clear goal.

The revival of the Dark Elf race! But what about the current Dark Elves? They haven’t undergone any changes.
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 “If that’s true – what happens when you fire at a target inside a locked room 100km away?”

『Unconditionally, you can hit anything. And if it hits, it kills.』

If these conditions are all true, does it mean that when the sealed room is opened, the target inside will be found dead? It’s an absurd assumption, but Kaztor was speculating that even this might be possible.

Leeha thought that if he became Arcane Sniper, he could dominate Middle Earth. That’s why he pondered, ‘What happens if you kill God? Would the Ezwen Theocracy perish? Or could he threaten to kill the Demon King’s fragments, Bluebeard, and others, and thereby control them?’

As his thoughts progressed, it caused him a headache, and a question arose. Arcane Sniper is currently a member of the Demon King’s army?

‘That can’t be! If Arcane Sniper is stronger than the Demon King’s fragments, why would he join them? No, if he has joined, shouldn’t he be close to leading the Demon King’s army?’

Why? For what reason?

“Cough…”

“Sigh…”

“Damn.”

All three of them groaned, but they could not find any answer. They had discovered certain facts about Arcane Sniper, but all questions couldn’t be resolved without trying it out firsthand. However, Kaztor’s laboratory, where more information could be gathered, likely didn’t exist anymore. So, only two options remained to answer all their questions.

“What will you two do?”

“What else? We simply ask Kaztor himself. Based on the keyword that he ‘stopped by 20 years ago’, we can ask Harhei and other mystical creatures.”

“Right, that makes sense. This lab’s data is, at most recent, 30 years old – it can’t compare to what happened 20 years ago.”

Kidd’s response was to seek slightly more updated information. But even as he spoke, Luger snorted in dismissal.

“Looking for Kaztor? Why bother? There’s a simpler way.”

Luger, fiddling with his Cobalt Blue Python, had already decided on his course of action.

Considering his straightforward nature, and remembering where they were and the current situation, the method he found was simple, yet dangerous. Leeha quickly caught on.

“Going to Arcane Sniper? Joining the Demon King’s army?”

“Heh, 『Pierce』 Brown… I can’t let some outdated NPC use my nickname. 『Piercing』 is for me alone.”


Luger seemed to have already decided that Brown, one of the old generation’s Three Musketeers, was Arcane Sniper. There’s a clear strategy to exploit if Arcane Sniper has a weakness of only being able to fire seven shots.

“Hmm… As for me -”

If Kidd sets out to find Kaztor, and Luger goes after the NPC presumed to be Arcane Sniper, what about Leeha? Kidd and Luger looked at him expectantly. But the answer they hoped for didn’t come.

“I need to think about it more.”

Unlike ‘Rapid Fire’ or ‘Pierce’, Leeha’s cautious nature could be likened to ‘Accuracy’.

He knew Arcane Sniper was formidable but felt instinctively that he couldn’t do anything immediately. What should be his priority? When it came to prioritizing tasks, no one could beat Leeha.

“If you’ve gathered everything, let’s get out of here.”

Leeha casually slipped the booklet into his bag and left the lab.

“Did you get your friend’s stuff?”

The eldest gorilla paleo was indeed waiting outside. How long had they spent inside, going through and collecting documents?

“Yes. We have gathered all the documents and books Kaztor left behind.”

“Hmm. We don’t know where our friend is, so we’ll have to ask for your help.”

Hearing paleo’s response, Kidd opened his mouth to speak but then closed it. He probably wanted to ask about Kaztor’s whereabouts, but now wasn’t the time.

‘Besides, it doesn’t make sense logically to ask about Kaztor’s location now after they’ve agreed to deliver his belongings. Any unnecessary questions would only decrease our intimacy.’

Intimacy, even at 100%, doesn’t remain forever. Suspicious behavior or causing harm can decrease it at any time. Of course, achievements won’t disappear, but for the Three Musketeers who need even the slightest bit of information, the situation was anything but convenient.

“How long were we inside?”

“Outside, the sun is already high in the sky.”

They had entered before midnight, but now it was not morning but lunchtime. The Three Musketeers were astonished at their concentration. They had been sifting through documents for nearly 12 hours.

“I’ve never even studied that long during exam periods.”

“Figures. I knew you weren’t much of a studier.”


“What are you talking about? That’s not what I meant!”

“No one said anything.”

As Leeha became flustered, Kidd chuckled and pulled his hat down. It was no use getting upset.

“So, we have two and a half days left until it ‘opens’?”

“Considering the time we spent escaping from the Red Wood Forest and other factors, that seems about right.”

This meant they had a little over two days left until Hyun could bring Warp Gate members, allowing regular users to travel to the New Continent. The Three Musketeers couldn’t afford to waste more time. They had achieved the Hall of Fame feat and discovered Kaztor’s lab, but to fully benefit from the ‘privileges’ exclusive to the New Continent expedition members, they needed to do more.

“Eldest hyung. Take me outside.”

“Me, me too! Me as well.”

“Just send all three of us out.”

Luger grabbed the eldest gorilla paleo’s arm first. Leeha and Kidd quickly followed suit.

“Are you not going to say goodbye to the guardian deity?”

“We’re not leaving forever; we’ll be back soon. Oh, if we want to come here again, should we contact you from the clearing?”

“Hmm. We always keep a close watch on the affairs of the surface. If our friends, you all, wish it, we will come to meet you anytime.”

The eldest gorilla paleo nodded. Since Leeha didn’t have extra save points in his crystal ball, this was a necessary choice. Perhaps Luger and Kidd didn’t feel the need to save due to their nature. They also didn’t feel regret as they learned another possible method through Leeha’s question.

“Let’s go!”

“Moving out.”

Swoosh!

Moments later, the Three Musketeers had left the underground city.

The sun, starkly different from artificial light, was blindingly bright. The Three Musketeers squinted, shielding their eyes from the sun.

“I’ll go report to the guardian deity. Let’s meet again next time.”


“Thanks eldest hyung.”

Luger, who had been individually closest to the eldest gorilla paleo, bid farewell, and the giant immediately performed a spatial teleportation. Now, only the three of them were left in the vast clearing. Luger was the first to turn around.

“The alliance ends here. Don’t expect any favors when we meet again.”

“Given that there can only be one Arcane Sniper, it’s a natural conclusion.”

Despite Luger’s grumbling threats, Kidd could only snicker in response. Quickly replacing the bullets in his Crimson Geckos, Kidd too turned in a different direction from Luger. Trudging along, Leeha clicked his tongue, watching Luger and Kidd leave with just a word each.

“Always so unappreciative… Take care! See you next time!”

Shwoooosh!

As Leeha shouted, a teal light flashed. Left alone underground, blaugrun hurried after Luger, then turned to shout at Kidd.

『Kyuu Kyuu! Kyuu Kyuu Kyuu!』

Despite Blaugrunn’s cries, Luger and Kidd didn’t look back. The cute and adorable Hatchling. They really wanted it but knew they could never have the ‘Ha Leeha-specific item’. Jealousy mixed with envy was why they tried not to pay much attention to Blaugrunn.

“Hehe, you had fun hanging out with those guys too, didn’t you, blaugrun?”

『Kyuu, Kyuu.』

Regardless of their reaction, blaugrun liked Luger and Kidd. Spinning above Leeha’s head, blaugrun’s actions made it clear.

 Leeha grinned and smiled.

“Alright, our goal is – first, exploration! Gathering various information! And… new ingredients and recipes! Deal?!”

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

『Myongmyong…』

“Great. We need to hurry if we’re feeding Koma too. Let’s go!” On a sunny day, with the sun shining brightly over the Red Wood and the clearing of New Continent Erika, the Three Musketeers set their next goals.

***

Running across the field was a herd of beasts. With sleek bodies, long, slender legs, and bushy tails, they resembled horses, but their short necks and upturned noses were more like a pig’s face. They seemed to be running towards a goal, all facing one direction – not by sight, but by smell.

Their noses twitched, sniffing the air, quickening their pace, yet there were no visible life forms in the direction they were running towards.

“Kuiiiiiik!”

“Kuiiiiiik, Kuiiiiiik!”

Rrrrrumble!

Their cries, similar to pigs, began to spread. Running much faster than the horses of the Lope continent, the ‘eyes’ of these creatures finally spotted their target. On a hill in the grassland, a random plate lay. On it was a piece of well-cooked, steaming meat.

The creatures had smelled this single piece of meat from over 1km away and sped up to reach it.

“Kuiiiiiik, Kuiiiiiik!”

“Kuiiiiiik!”

It was an unbelievable sight, but they were used to it by now. For Leeha, it was something that he was still not used to.

“Pigs are so sensitive, so noisy – these foals!”

“Kuiiiiik?!”

Whoosh!

Suddenly, a figure appeared on the hill where the plate was.

The foals screamed and scattered, but Leeha couldn’t let them go.

“This time I’ll capture them, ‘Soul Link’! And Blaugrunn, Jellypong!”

Whoosh!

A red light glowed in front of Leeha’s eyes. He could feel it even with his eyes closed.

His soulmate was created by now, the emerging Bronze Dragon, and the stretching arms of Jellypong. All the attacks aimed to catch the quick foals, who started to turn around frantically.

The reason for the clear sight was simple. He had tried several times but hadn’t succeeded in a whole day! Capturing the quick and agile foals, faster even than Jellypong’s stretching arms, and dodging Blaugrunn’s mana before it could reach them, was nearly impossible.

Leeha had one remaining method, but having wasted it before, he was extremely frustrated.

“Damn, luring Koma with meat was a mistake. Couldn’t even use it once because of the cooldown – Koma, burn them all!”

But now it was possible!

Leeha, determined to make up for the lost 24 hours, commanded fiercely.

Fwoosh, flames seemed to burst from Koma’s body, which was no longer just a large bear.

“Rooooooar!”

The bellow of the field boss ‘Fire Bear’, capable of inducing 『Fear』, resounded powerfully.

Despite the earth-shaking vibrations as the foals ran, Leeha’s eyes caught a clear sight.

Four foals, paralyzed and squealing in place… The plan had finally succeeded.

(To be continued…)
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 “Great! Four of them! Four! Blaugrunn, help me out! But gently, just enough to make them faint, not too strong.”

『Kyuu!』

Uncertain when the fear would dissipate, Leeha wanted to ensure their capture.

He stealthily pulled out an electric shocker from his bag, enhanced with a bit of Blaugrunn’s mana to increase its voltage.

“Sorry, this will knock you out quickly, so it won’t hurt.”

“Kuiiit!”

“Haah!”

『Kyuu!』

Zzzt zzzt zzzt!

After a brief flash of blue electric sparks, the four puols – creatures resembling a blend of horse and pig – collapsed onto the grass.

“Jellypong! Tie up all their legs tightly. Don’t let go until I say so.”

『Mong Mong…』

Baiting, paralyzing, knocking out, and now capturing – only then could Leeha wipe the sweat from his brow. Not that he was actually sweating.

“The meat was really tasty and gave a lot of experience, but who knew capturing them would take 24 hours. Right?”

Leeha smiled wryly, looking at the four puols sprawled on the ground.

Then, he turned to his ‘family’.

『Kyuu!』

『Mong, mong, mong.』

“Kuoong!”

The sight of three different ‘species’ racing for the meat on the plate was quite a spectacle.


“You guys… you just ate and you’re at it again?”

But Leeha wasn’t petty enough to fuss over their eating.

After all, blaugrun and Koma needed to eat well to grow strong.

“Anyway, I don’t need all four puols. Let’s see… I’ll keep the one that looks the nicest, and the other three –”

Leeha clicked his pistols – the Needle Gun and Hummingbird – loading them with steel ball bullets.

“Still, they’ll die because they’re knocked out, so don’t hold it against me.”

Bang!

“Kuot, squeeel!”

The collapsed puols began to twitch their noses and open their eyes, waking up from fainting due to the delicious smell – these creatures had instincts not unlike the other three species.

“Oh, they’re waking up!”

“Growl!”

『Kyuu! Kyuu!』

Leeha, Koma, and Blaugrunn all turned their heads toward the puol.

Around them lay the butchered carcasses of their peers, blood dripping… The puol quickly realized the source of the ‘delicious smell’ and panicked.

“Kwiiiiit! Kwiiit- kwiiit-”

“Ah, be quiet. Koma, blaugrun, keep eating.”

“Grrr!”

『Kyuu!』

Without needing to be told, the two creatures continued eating, unperturbed. Leeha chuckled and slowly approached the fallen puol. The creature tried to struggle, but with its legs tied by Jellypong, it was hardly effective. Every movement scraped the ground beneath it.

‘Definitely strong and heavy. It might be cowardly, but if it decided to ram, human players would struggle to stay unharmed.’


Even in a herd, the puols seemed to run away at the mere sight of Leeha. However, judging them as harmless would be premature.

‘Buffaloes and elephants are herbivores but physically strong… Wait, these aren’t even herbivores, are they?’

The puols had been attracted by the smell of meat. Omnivorous like pigs, Leeha thought as he pulled out a piece of jerky from his bag and tossed it to the puol.

“Kuiiit! Kuiiit…”

“Wow, it actually caught and ate that.”

Tied up by Jellypong but still wriggling to catch and eat what Leeha threw, the puol’s determination was impressive!

Leeha marveled as it munched away like a motor.

“Kuiiit!”

“Tastes better than you thought, right? Creatures of the New Continent wouldn’t have smoked and salted jerky like this…”

They would only have eaten natural foods. Even the gorilla paleos live almost primitively. The puol quickly devoured the jerky, already looking at Leeha with sparkling eyes, wanting more.

“If you stick with me, you can eat even tastier things. You understand, right?”

“Kuiiit! Kuiiit, Kuiiit!”

“Hmm, seems food alone won’t do.”

Leeha opened his bag again.

Swoosh, he pulled out various vegetables and fruits.

He had bought them in the gorilla paleos’ city for cooking, but hadn’t used them yet.

“Kuiiit…”

But the puol grimaced at the sight of the fruits and vegetables.

“What? Even though they seem to be based on horses, they dislike fruits?”

Leeha was puzzled. He had been sure it would eat them.


“Well, there’s another way. The magic sauce that even a crying child would eat raw vegetables with!”

Clang, clang!

Leeha rummaged through his bag again.

Suddenly, he felt a bit gloomy, realizing that his bag, supposedly for a Musketeer and one of the Three Musketeers, seemed to carry more cooking tools than weapons.

“Simple but stimulating.”

He mixed mayonnaise and ketchup, adding a tiny bit of balsamic vinegar he carried in a small jar instead of pickles. Then he finely chopped various vegetables. Making sure not to add too much water, he stirred them thoroughly, creating a dressing!

Though the ingredients were a bit different, what Leeha now had in his mini bowl was undoubtedly a dressing.

“Thousand Island! Sweet and sour.”

Leeha dipped a fruit into the dressing.

The slightly thick dressing dripped from the fruit… and the puol’s nose twitched in response.

“Kuiiit!”

“Bastard, just a moment ago you wouldn’t eat this – fussy, aren’t you?”

Leeha grinned and threw a fruit piece coated in dressing.

The puol crunched it loudly, an astonishing display of voraciousness.

Continuing with the jerky and fruit onslaught, Leeha slowly closed the distance, ensuring the puol stayed relaxed.

One step, then another. By the time he could stroke its mane, he had already given it a fair amount of food.

“Purr-r-r-r, Phoong!”

The puol didn’t make pig noises, but snorted and twitched every time Leeha touched it.

‘Taming is harder than I thought. If it were as easy as just feeding them, tamers or Druids wouldn’t have such a hard job.’

Even while feeding, one must consider the creature’s diet and habitat, offering them something new yet tasty. Despite trying various foods from the Old Continent’s dressing to the New Continent’s meats, taming still felt distant to Leeha.

‘Now I’m out of food, damn… Can’t give up, I’ve spent 24 hours on this! Maybe I should just release it. If it runs, my familiarity will surely increase. After all, just tying it up and feeding it doesn’t guarantee obedience.’

“Kuiiit! Kuiiit!”

As Leeha stepped back, the puol began to panic again. Once released, it would surely try to escape. Leeha had to make a choice. Should he gamble on securing this ‘mount’ after investing 24 hours?

“If only I could ride Koma longer, but the duration is too short.”

“Grr?”

“No, no, eat up.”

The Fire Bear, called by name, looked at Leeha but immediately resumed devouring the puol’s meat upon being told to continue. Finally, Leeha made his decision.

If it failed, he would just have to run on foot!

“Jellypong! Release it.”

『Mong…』

Sssrrrrkk!

As the restraints were removed, the puol flapped and stood up.

Each time it handled the meat, its impressive muscularity and density were evident.

‘Doesn’t suit a pig face, but well…’

The puol didn’t run away immediately. But for every step Leeha took, it took one back, maintaining distance.

“Here, this is the last piece of jerky. Please!”

Whooosh!

Leeha threw a small piece of jerky.

The puol’s nostrils flared, and before you knew it, it was chewing the jerky.

Even after swallowing it, the puol didn’t approach Leeha, who sighed and turned away.

“I’ve been beaten. Go, just go. Damn, all this time wasted. If only –”

『Mong, mong…!』

Hearing Jellypong’s distressed (?) sound, Leeha quickly turned his head, only to witness an astonishing scene.

“-Huh? What- what’s happening?”

The puol was licking Jellypong.

Every time its long tongue licked over Jellypong, the creature made sounds of laughter or perhaps screams, going “Mong, myong!”

“What are you doing?”

But what it was doing no longer seemed important, as an alarm went off in Leeha’s mind.

『Achievement: Hoping for Friendship-puol (B-)』

Congratulations! You have successfully tamed a puol, the wind’s child running through the great plains of the New Continent Erika. Not all puols will follow you, but those who have received your complete trust and love over a long period will follow you for a certain time.

Reward: Agility +10, strength +3, Pet: Nameless puol

You are the third registrant of the 『Hoping for Friendship-puol』 achievement.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effects: Agility +20, strength +6

『You do not belong to the animal affinity profession group.』

『Loyalty duration is reduced by 30%.』

『Pet’s stats are reduced by 20%.』

“What? It’s tamed?”

Long time, complete trust, and love? The phrasing in the achievement alone indicated the difficulty of taming.

Although it was only a B- grade achievement, it required a lot of time and effort.

“I get that, but why did it follow me now?”

Lick, lick, lick…

『Mong, mong…!』

Could it be because of this? Leeha looked incredulously at the puol licking Jellypong.

‘Licking Jellypong? Jellypong’s new taste, that pig, and my friendship suddenly 100%? Ah, aha!’

Unusual? Was that even the right word for this? Leeha then remembered. What Jellypong was. What the puol was licking wasn’t just a simple item or a creature resembling a slime.

“The essence made from the Sea God’s essence! Damn, of course! That’s mine!”

It was what Kijung had once thought about but never dared to try – the ‘Essence of the Water Spirit’ that he got from Drake and earned an achievement for drinking.

Even water spirits have their hierarchies!

If the essence of a Sea God’s son was powerful, what about Jellypong, made from the essence of the Sea God himself, the highest among water spirits and Drake’s father?

“You naughty – pig! You’re not supposed to drink that! Jellypong, come here!”

Swoosh!

Jellypong quickly attached itself to Leeha’s chest, transforming into a vest. The puol, missing Jellypong it was busily licking, looked somewhat disappointed, but only for a moment.

(To be continued…)
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 “Kuhyung, Kuhyung, Kuhyung!”

The puol soon began to snort and laugh. Leeha looked at Jellypong, now perfectly transformed into a vest, with a dismayed expression.

‘If I lick it – no, that sounds weird… If I use it – yeah, just like that pig did! If I wash it in water and then use it…’

He pondered how to earn an achievement himself. It was a mix of joy and sorrow. The fact that the puol had been tamed by licking Jellypong meant that this action brought about ‘some result’.

“Hmm… At least I should wait for the puol’s saliva to dry before using it. Let’s check the achievement first – huh?”

Leeha’s attention returned to the alert he had momentarily missed due to the shocking scene of the puol licking (or sucking?) Jellypong. Third in the Hall of Fame.

“Wow, so two members of the New Continent expedition have already tamed a puol?”

 There could only be two candidates: the Tamer Yongyong and the Druid Jin Gonggong.

‘That person who was always with Chiyou? Well, it’s expected given their skills to be selected for the expedition…’

Three and a half days have passed, quite some time indeed. But even for Tamers or Druids, it wouldn’t have been easy for regular users to tame an animal. Leeha had interacted with many creatures but had only tamed one bear, and that was not even as a pet but as a special event achievement. Essentially, Leeha’s taming experience was virtually zero.

“Of course, there’s no time to waste! This loyalty thing probably refers to the duration of taming, and every moment counts! Blaugrunn-ssi, let’s go! Koma, you finish up the rest and rest when you return!”

『Kyuu? Kyuu…』

“Grr, Grrr!”

The moods of Blaugrunn and Koma were different.

Since Koma’s duration was almost over, it was best to let it finish eating and then send it back.

As soon as Blaugrunn weakly flapped onto Leeha’s head, he climbed onto the puol.

“Kuiiit!”

“Whoa, whoa. Even though it has a pig’s head and neck, it can still run well, right?”

The puol flinched momentarily but soon settled, perhaps comforted by the presence of Jellypong’s scent.

‘It’s confusing whether I tamed it or Jellypong did, but…’


Leeha tilted his head and grabbed the Puol’s mane. He then lightly kicked the Puol’s sides with his heels.

“Kuiiit!”

“Let’s go!”

With Leeha’s robust command, the sound of the pig’s Kuiiit echoed across the vast plains.

The Puol burst into a sprint, reaching near-top speed in no time, and Leeha laughed atop it.

“Only a day and a half left! I need to explore as much as possible, and see where different monsters are distributed! I need to start mapping out where I can find what I need!”

Wasting time with aimless wandering in a continent devoid of information was not an option.

This was precisely why Leeha had invested time in taming the puol.

Left on the hill to deal with the ‘leftovers’, Koma waved at the rapidly shrinking figures of Leeha and Blaugrunn.

“Grrrrrr——!”

It was almost like a grandfather waving off his kin with a gesture of caution.

“Wabong, wabong.”

Two figures were fumbling around.

At first glance, they seemed human, but their lower bodies were different.

Their thighs were as big as their upper bodies, creating an unbalanced appearance. It was more like they had two pairs of legs rather than just standing on two thick ones.

Strictly speaking, even their upper bodies, though resembling humans, were not quite human. Their thick backs and shoulders contributed to their imbalanced appearance.

Such muscular creatures squatting and collecting something was an oddly amusing sight.

Rustle, rustle!

“What’s that, wabong?”

Startled by the sudden noise, they turned their heads.


When the bushes rustled briefly, what emerged was a creature with the snout of a pig and the body of a horse.

“Kuiiit!”

“Shh, quiet-… oh.”

 Taak, tak, tak. Without horseshoes but with the lively sound of hooves, a creature made its presence known. On top of this being, someone was gripping its mane.

“Wabong-ah? A puol? And what?”

“Ah, you can talk? Are you a paleo then? Judging by its face, its mystical creature is probably a wild boar or something?”

Leeha laughed, trying to ease the tension, but it was in vain.

It had been nearly 12 hours since Leeha tamed the puol. During this extensive exploration across the vast lands of the new continent, Leeha encountered a wild boar-shaped paleo.

“Wabong!”

“Wabong! Ah, wabo!”

The wild boar paleo snorted, revealing its protruding tusks. Just from the bulging thigh muscles, it was evident that these creatures were capable of a sudden leap and tusk attack.

“But I didn’t come here to fight! Damn you, you damned pig! I understand you’re excited to meet your kind, but don’t just charge out like that!”

“Wabong!”

Bang! Boom!

As Leeha expected, the wild boar paleo immediately attempted to close the gap.

Unfortunately for them, they ended up ramming their heads into the tree behind Leeha. Fortunately, the creature Leeha was riding, the puol, had incredible reflexes and easily dodged the wild boar paleo’s attack.

“Kwiiiiek!”

Red goats, black cranes, gorillas, and now a different form of paleo.

How much could they communicate? What was the level of their civilization? Leeha wanted to find out, but with their aggressive behavior, it was clear they weren’t open to dialogue.

“Phew, thank goodness- no. Let’s get out of here! Run, you stupid pig!”


Leeha yanked the puol’s mane harder.

The puol quickly turned around and started running.

“Kwiiit! Kwiiiiit!”

“Wapong! Catch them!”

“They could be the Demon King’s minions. Wapong! To the guardian deity! Wapong!”

The wild boar paleo had remarkable speed, matching their muscular build, but they were no match for Pauls.

“Kyukyukyukyu!”

“Hold tight, blaugrun-ssi!”

Blaugrunn clung to Leeha’s hair, fluttering like a flag.

How fast could they be going? 80 km/h? 100 km/h? It was hard to gauge the exact speed, but it impressed Leeha. The only challenge was enduring the force without a helmet or goggles, akin to a high-end sports car’s acceleration and speed maintenance.

‘And not being able to fully control it is also an issue… Hmm, is this what owning a pet is all about?’

Different from Koma, blaugrun, or Jellypong. While there was a pet window to manage the pet’s stats and basic nature, it was no easy task.

The notification that appeared when Leeha first succeeded in taming suggested that it might be more challenging since he wasn’t specialized in animal affinity professions.

Even if Leeha was only a little late in feeding, the loyalty of his pet would drastically decrease, leading to rebellion.

Understanding the difference between intimacy and loyalty, Leeha knew well what consequences would follow if loyalty fell below 50%.

“Whoa, whoa, stop now, Pauls.”

“Quiiek!”

Only after getting a safe distance from the wild boar paleo did Leeha stop Pauls. He then took out a crumpled piece of paper from his bag.

“Wild boar paleo sightings here… I better mark this area as a caution zone.”

Scratch, scratch, scratch.

He quickly jotted down notes and sketched significant landmarks.

Perhaps the only handmade map of the new continent! Leeha’s map was filled with traces of his ceaseless 12-hour exploration, including the Red Wood, the clearing where the Three Musketeers had parted ways, the prairie where he tamed the puol, and much more.

“Quite a journey, but only two discovery achievements. It seems merely stepping into uncharted territory isn’t enough.”

Leeha shook his head. One was already listed as the second discovery in the Hall of Fame, meaning Fernand had been there before. Not just the achievement’s level, but its existence also indicated the danger level of the area. The two areas where the discovery achievements appeared were perilous to explore alone.

‘I just peeked in and came out, but taming must be similar. Not all animals grant achievements.’

Leeha had already contacted Jin Gonggong. He had already reached 100% intimacy with six animals, a surprising feat in less than 24 hours, but only three of those resulted in achievements.

‘What animals did he tame, and how? He wouldn’t tell me. I will remember that, Jin Gonggong-ssi.’

Leeha chuckled, recalling his interactions and observations of others during the past 12 hours.

As Kidd and Luger said, in the grand scheme of the expedition, everyone was a teammate. But now, each was on their own, not sharing even basic stat information—a harsh yet thorough world of Middle Earth.

But Leeha wasn’t upset. If others wouldn’t share, why should he? His motivation was only fueled by the desire to get ahead.

“I can’t miss this opportunity. Only one day left until the mana relay tower’s warp gate is activated. I’m quite satisfied with this exploration, but…”

Aside from the red goats, black cranes, and the gorillas, he had found four more paleo species: a carp near a dark lake, a dog with jade light, a buffalo at the base of a tall mountain, and the wild boar. Each had distinct regional characteristics and temperaments.

‘Monsters appeared occasionally, but now’s not the time for hunting. The best use of my remaining time is intimacy achievements.’

Leeha needed to get stronger.

With Shin Nara as a formidable rival in the achievement race, druid Jin Gonggong and Tamer Yong Yong could use the animals they tamed as offerings to increase intimacy.

‘If I want to monopolize the Hall of Fame…’

With just 24 hours until Hyerin brings the warp gate crew and opens the new continent to general users, Leeha decided to focus on achieving as many feats as possible.

‘Character window.’

Name: Ha Leeha/ Race: Human

Class: Musketeer / Level: 195 (34%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements: 118

HP: 6,410(4,487)

MP: 1,575 Stats: Strength 442(+357)

Agility 3,166(+1,032)

Intelligence 160(+109)

Stamina 228(+135)

Spirit 65(+55)

Remaining Stat Points: 0

‘What if I manage to conquer all four paleos?’

Leeha knew how to approach them. Just needed to find their favorite foods, and he might surpass Shin Nara in record time.

He set his course and goal.

“Let’s hit a neat 3,333 in agility!”

To others, such a stat might seem unbelievable. What does a single stat exceeding 3,000 mean?

After parting with the gorilla paleo, Leeha hadn’t fully utilized Black Bass yet.

The ‘additional effect’ of the legendary item he gave to Kijung, ‘Nameless Paladin’s Legendary Sword’, required over 2,500 stamina, and even Kijung needed 11 more points to activate it.

“Let’s go, puol! Starting with the buffalo! Plus, with the common reputation in the Erika Continent, each paleo tamed will make the next easier!”

“Kwiiit!”

Befriending four paleos tribes in 24 hours before the flood of users!

Sweeping all achievements and the Hall of Fame in the new continent!

Even if he couldn’t hit 3,333, setting high goals was Leeha’s way.

“If not, I’ll reach it with level 200. Heuheu. Run, run!”

『Kyukyukyu!』

The puol sped up, its pig-like cries echoing as it ran.

The real monster awaiting general users in the new continent might not be paleo, monsters, remnants of the Demon King’s Fragment, or his army, but a ‘player.’

A player with a hatchling-class dragon riding its head, wearing items made from Sea God’s essence, wielding legendary weapons, and with one stat over 3,000 while still below level 200, this ‘monster’ might be the biggest surprise for them.

(To be continued…)
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 “Ukiiiit! Is that really all it takes? Can such a simple boundary really make our underground city more peaceful?”

“Of course. I am working on such tasks in the strongest kingdom across the sea, among humans. Despite being an underground city, this fact actually works to your advantage. The city is virtually lit 24 hours a day. If you patrol periodically as I suggested, the number of problems caused by paleos will significantly decrease. This place is no longer just a ‘village’, but should be treated as a ‘city’. You need to manage security more systematically.”

Listening to her crisp explanation, Harhei and even the eldest gorilla paleo, showed expressions of deep impression.

“Lowland! Indeed… indeed, worthy of someone introduced by Ha Leeha and his friends. Guardian deity!”

“Good, good, eldest! Let’s implement it right away. Just as this female human said, immediately!”

“Lowland!”

The eldest gorilla paleo deeply bowed to Harhei and then turned around. Before leaving the guardian deity’s dwelling, he didn’t forget to say goodbye to her.

“Thank you. Truly, thank you, female human.”

“Isn’t it time you called me by my name?”

As she smiled brightly, the eldest gorilla paleo was taken aback in return. He had never imagined a smile from a female human could possess such strong ‘attack power (?)’.

Feeling emotions he had never experienced before, the eldest gorilla paleo stumbled backward.

“Yes, indeed. Thank you, Shin Nara.”

“Don’t mention it. I’m just glad I could help.”

Babam-!

The moment she finished speaking, a lively fanfare sounded in Shin Nara’s head.

Her expression brightened as much as the sound effect.

『You have achieved 100% intimacy with the mystical creature Harhei.』

『 You have achieved 100% intimacy with Harhei’s paleo – the Lowland gorilla.』

“Hmm, lowland!”

The eldest gorilla paleo bowed toward Harhei and then went outside.


Having already achieved 100% intimacy with the Red Goat and Black Crane paleo, she was searching for her next goal when she received a whisper from Leeha and was guided to this place. However, unlike the Musketeers who had their first encounter with the gorilla paleos while hunting Rhinodillos, she had come here solely through Leeha’s introduction, without any opportunity to prove her abilities. For her, who usually raised intimacy rapidly through quests and affinity combinations while displaying her swordsmanship skills and the name of the Sacred Knights, it was as if one of her feet was tied. Therefore, it was even more difficult for Shin Nara, nicknamed ‘the user closest to an NPC’, to build intimacy with them compared to the Musketeers who raised theirs through spending money or hunting quests.

“I’ll be going now.”

“Ukit! Thank you! Female human, no, Shin Nara, you’re always welcome in our city! Ukiiit!”

“Hehe, thank you for saying so. Stay healthy until next time, lord Harhei.”

“Ukit! Ukit!”

Harhei was even happier with her polite farewell. Shin Nara tore her scroll as she left the dwelling of the guardian deity, marking the end of her nearly 30-hour ordeal with the gorilla paleos.

“Phew… it’s tough, really tough. Less than 10 hours left now.”

It was almost sunset outside. Hyein had only about 10 hours left to clear the quest with the Warpgate team members. Even the largest Middle Earth community had no significant new posts; everyone was busy preparing for the New Continent by logging into Middle Earth early.

“I’ve built up intimacy with three tribes under the name of Sacred Knights… but I wish I could do one more.”

She stretched and opened her friend list. At the very top, unsurprisingly, was Leeha. Naturally, he caught her eye first.

Nara: Leeha-ssi!

Leeha: Oh, Nara-ssi?! … You’re finally out!

Nara: You have no idea how tough it was. The gorilla friends really didn’t suit me. Who would’ve thought it would take over 30 hours to achieve 100% intimacy? Right?

Leeha: Yes, that’s true. For ordinary users, it would have taken at least a week…

Leeha barely held back that last part. After all, Leeha himself had achieved it in less than a day. Shin Nara was beaming despite his awkward laughter. Just hearing his voice was enough to lift her spirits, unrelated to the content of their conversation.

Nara: So, could you introduce me to just one more? I’ll tell you a secret to rapidly increase intimacy if you do. I know it’s a bit late to ask after spending so much time with the gorillas…

Leeha: Oh, between us, that’s nothing. Alright. I’ll tell you about the easiest paleo friends to meet. I’ll describe their location and characteristics for you.

Nara: Between us…?

Leeha: Yes. Why?

Shin Nara almost bit her tongue. But after hearing Leeha’s calm voice again, she sighed softly. Just whispering with Leeha seemed to change her expression every ten seconds.


‘Is he just saying that…? I thought there was some meaning to it.’ But Nara couldn’t know.

She didn’t know the expression Leeha had while exchanging whispers, how much he was twisting his body, aimlessly kicking the ground. What he managed to express with great effort was just that, yet it failed to reach Nara.

Nara: I’ve checked the location! Small paleo, right… 10 hours should be enough! Thank you, Leeha! I’ll tell you the secret after reaching the Hall of Fame, so look forward to it!

Leeha: Ah, yes… Alright.

“Why does Leeha sound so down? Doesn’t he need the secret? Hmm, with this, one can achieve 100% intimacy with almost any NPC in a day… How strange.”

Puzzled, she turned towards the location Leeha had described. Unbeknownst to her, just 20 minutes after her departure, a violet light sparkled near that spot.

“There’s an underground city here… Now I can finally trade”, she thought, as her kimono fluttered in the wind.

‘Transforming into a cow paleo, likes grass, and giving it meat actually decreases intimacy – I have to be careful… Haha, Leeha seems to be solidifying his strategy based on their diet’, Shin Nara mused over the information Leeha had given her.

She moved swiftly, the scenery whizzing past her as if she were in a car, yet her face showed no signs of exhaustion.

‘A mystical creature with eight legs and two cow heads. If left alone, the two cows will fight each other… Similar to a Two-Headed Ogre – probably the strategy is to resolve the conflict between the two cow heads! That alone should raise the intimacy by 30%.’

With just a few facts, she had already formulated her strategy. Leeha had struggled immensely with the gorilla paleos, mistakenly cooking meat and drastically reducing intimacy, but she wouldn’t make the same mistake.

“Ah, the air is fresh. The Erika continent definitely has a higher overall freshness than the Lope continent. It would be nice to go to a botanical garden with Leeha. Eheh. Ah, but it might still be inconvenient with a wheelchair – Hmm?!”

Despite her fast pace, her senses were sharp. The sensation at the tip of her toe was not the usual feeling of stepping on soil or a broken branch.

What was this tingling feeling through her plate boots?!

“A trap!”

Boom———-!

Unable to stop in her swift motion, she realized too late that she had fallen into a trap, as an explosive energy burst from the ground, sending her flying.

Whirling in the air, fortunately, the damage was minimal. She was momentarily dazed but quickly regained her composure and twisted her body in mid-air.

“Ugh, what the-… Damn it, could it be…”

Landing back on the ground, she absorbed some of the energy using a tree trunk, but her expression grew more distorted. Who could have set up this trap here?


『You have been affected by the ‘Mana Barrier’ status ailment.』

『You cannot leave the restricted area for 30 minutes.』

(Dispel possible if possessing higher abilities than the caster)

『You have been affected by the ‘Spatial Bind’ status ailment.』

『All spatial movement within the range is limited for 15 minutes.』

Who could plot such a thing in the brief moment between the trap’s explosion and her landing? The answer was clear.

“Buhihihih, ma’am Shin?! Surpriii——ise!”

The identity of the person walking towards her from the end of the spatial constraint was clear from his manner of speaking.

“… Petyr. You really…”

“Did you think hiding underground would keep me from finding you? Buhihihit, I can commend you for quickly escaping from the Black Crane paleo village, but such trickery won’t free you from me!”

Petyr’s nails sparkled in his hands.

Their sharpness momentarily caught Shin Nara’s attention, but she quickly focused elsewhere.

‘The Black Crane paleos… That was two days ago. Petyr wasn’t there.’

How did he know her whereabouts?

Certainly, Petyr wasn’t in the Black Crane paleo village, nor during her time with the Red Goat paleos. And how did he know she just came from underground?

‘No, the direction is strange too. How did he know I’d pass by here and set a trap – and how is he coming from the 『direction I intended to go』?’

It was clear he had been waiting with certainty. That’s what Shin Nara found odd.

‘Leeha said I was the only one in the Cow paleo village. After I left, no other user had been there -‘

Then why, how, and for what reason was Petyr there?

“Buhihit, what are you pondering over so deeply? Thoughts without answers aren’t really thoughts, miss Ma’am.”

Petyr, playing the beastman race Miyaw, crouched down, ready to pounce like a tiger preparing to attack, and Nara’s muscles tensed in response.

“Phew… Right, exactly. It’s a problem that must be solved. Thinking isn’t what’s important.”

Petyr’s arms and legs moved smoothly, yet incredibly slowly.

Shin Nara’s arm also moved very slowly towards the sheath at her waist. Very slowly, very slowly.

(To be continued…)
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 When would it happen?

Both knew the moment he would move and she would react. They didn’t even hope for a full beat; for agile close-range fighters, even half a beat was enough. Just as Shin Nara’s hand was about to touch the hilt of her sword.

The very instant Petyr leaped to seal her movements before she could draw her sword!

“I knew it, attaque Surprise!”

Shin Nara’s arm was half a beat faster as she drew her sword.

Swoosh!

The blade was thin, but its sharpness was undiminished. And then, with a whoosh!

The speed at which her sword’s tip moved was enough to create a vapor cone around it.

However, it was a sad sight for her that Petyr, whose muscles had bulged as if they would burst, the Miyaw who she thought would pounce in front of her in an instant, was still grounded.

“Buhaha, what did you know?!”

“How can this be-”

She had been certain Petyr would be in that spot.

But now, her attack skill futilely whizzed through empty air towards nothingness.

Petyr was among the strongest assassins, able to induce movements with just a twitch of his muscles. And having taken her turn first, now the price had to be paid.

Nara: Leeha-ssi, Petyr-

In this moment of crisis, Shin Nara instinctively sent a whisper to the first person who came to her mind. Naturally, Petyr’s onslaught was faster than Leeha’s response.

“Cough, contre-”

There were many skills for counterattack.

During her rapid combat with Petyr, Shin Nara found herself unable to properly execute any skill. Before she could even initiate a skill, Petyr’s claws were sure to have slashed her throat.

If she had been a regular player, relying solely on Middle Earth’s fencing skills, she would have been dead already.


Chaang——!

Leeha: Nara-ssi?! Nara-ssi! Stall Petyr, I’ll be there soon!

However, Shin Nara was not a typical player. Using only the strength of her wrists, she managed to parry Petyr’s attack with her sword.

Leeha’s whisper echoed faintly, but Shin Nara had no time to respond.

“Muhooot!? You blocked it? Indeed, buhahaha, indeed Ma’am Shin!”

Even the attacker Petyr was surprised, but it was a pleasure born of his confidence. Once the Miyaw gained momentum, his movements were unpredictable.

“Acrobatic Ambush!”

The distance between Petyr and Shin Nara was less than a meter.

With a short gap, Petyr attempted an attack with a tumbling motion, folding his body.

Shin Nara was momentarily baffled.

Tumbling at this distance? As soon as his body would complete half a rotation, they would be upon each other. Unless he was aiming for a kick attack, this move made no sense!

“Damn, degagement!”

Thus, Shin Nara was able to react.

Petyr had to pay the price for trying to surprise his opponent! He was not one to misjudge distance and make such an attack! There must be some trick!

Whiish-!

Her slender sword thrust towards Petyr.

How could he dodge while tumbling? Just as her sharp sword tip was about to pierce Petyr’s thigh, his gleaming claws sprung out.

Chang—!

By the time the metallic clash echoed, Petyr’s form had completely reversed. The tumbling Miyaw had vanished.

“Buhahaha, isn’t it fun?”


“Layering an illusion and then attacking from above it – how cowardly!”

“Typical Ma’am Shin, anyone else would have had their throat cut three times by now!”

The reason for such an outlandish attack was clear: to completely strip away the usual sense of distance.

There was no time to be amazed by the idea of creating deception with a sequence of skills.

‘When did he use the illusion? Where?’

There was no sign of Petyr using such a skill, but Shin Nara couldn’t ponder any longer.

Attacks were coming simultaneously towards her neck, thighs, solar plexus, and chest. Petyr’s strikes were flexible, unpredictable, yet precise and sharp.

Claws clashed with the sword. A sword clashed with claws.

With each collision, sparks flew. In the dim light, each spark made Petyr’s face flash eerily.

Kagaat——-!

“Buhahaha!”

“Heup!”

Barely managing to block two of Petyr’s claw strikes, Shin Nara’s plate mail on the upper body was scraped. With a long metallic scraping sound, part of her armor was gouged out.

‘I can’t read the flow. This is much more challenging than during my palace days’, Shin Nara thought, struggling to keep up.

Understanding Petyr’s pattern seemed almost impossible, and reacting to his movements was perilously close to failing.

‘I wish he’d use a skill, like “Nape Slash” – it would be easier to handle than this – Cough!’

Chaang——!

Nara parried Petyr’s fierce attack with a swing of her sword.

Petyr was not the kind of assassin to use skills that force movements.

Such skills are used by lower-level assassins to catch their target off guard. However, using them also means revealing one’s position, which can be easily countered by skilled and aware opponents. Moreover, Petyr’s basic attacks were more powerful and unpredictable than any low-level assassin’s skill, making it unnecessary for him to resort to such tactics.


“Uhyooooo!”

Whisk-!

Petyr suddenly turned his back to Shin Nara.

‘A gap!’

She wanted to stab him. Even if he was a beastkin Miyaw with extraordinary physical abilities, could he react in time from that position? She was confident her stab would be at least 0.3 seconds faster than Petyr turning around to raise his claws.

“Yikes-!”

But Nara restrained herself.

That was exactly Petyr’s bait! No sooner had she thought this than Petyr leapt up, extending his foot.

“Venom Claw.”

The soles of his feet extended in a straight line, tipped with sharp, now purplish-colored claws.

Shwaash-!

His foot’s swift extension cut through the air, missing her. Although Petyr’s attack came to nothing, Nara couldn’t help but swallow dryly. If she had attempted a stab when he showed his back, that spot would have been where her chest would be.

“Oh! Surprise?! Buhaha, didn’t expect you to resist that timing!”

Regret tinged with sincerity was evident in Petyr’s voice. The fact that his recent attack was a desperate attempt was clear from the lack of smoothness in his follow-up movement.

“Phew, you just used your turn too, right, Petyr?! Sentiment de fer!”

Nara wouldn’t miss this opportunity. Her quick thrust, like an Olympic gold medalist’s, was aimed at Petyr’s right forearm. He couldn’t block with his right hand. Petyr’s left hand hastily came up to parry her attack.

Kaang, and with that sound, the corner of her mouth rose slightly.

“Got you.”

“Buhaha! What can you do with such a feeble attack?”

“Fencing isn’t just about slashing or stabbing. It’s about how you handle the moment your sword clashes with the opponent’s. That’s the skill of a first-class fencer.”

“Buhaha, that’s a laugh-”

Whisk-!

Petyr tried to swipe away her sword with his left hand, but Nara’s sword didn’t leave his claws. It moved as if glued to his left hand’s nails.

“-Eh? Even so, I’m not-”

“Liement!”

It wasn’t a skill, but pure fencing ‘technique.’

When Petyr swung his right hand to strike her sword, Nara dragged her blade diagonally downwards, extending it.

With a brilliant transfer of force, Petyr’s left hand involuntarily followed.

Even as the top Miyaw beastkin player, he couldn’t counter her move in his compromised stance. The situation continued similarly. Petyr tried to break away with his left arm or strike her sword with his right arm or legs, but each attempt failed.

Whisk, whisk, whisk-!

It looked almost like a choreographed dance between the two.

Of course, this was exceedingly difficult. Facing Petyr, the pinnacle of agile assassins, Nara focused intensely, not missing even the smallest cell in his body. Naturally, she was pushing her limits with each move.

‘Leeha-ssi…’

Leeha’s words, telling her to wait, had been her driving force up to this point, but now even that was waning.

“Oho, ohohoho! Isn’t this fun, ma’am Shin?!”

“Fun? Hardly – if it’s come to this-!”

She had to make a choice.

Now she had to disengage her sword from those vicious claws.

Petyr would continue his relentless assault. If she had to keep defending, her only chance was now.

“Coquille Maneuver!”

With the skill activation, she detached her sword.

Coquille, the part of the sword protecting the hand, briefly shone, and the light transferred to Nara’s left hand, the one not holding the sword.

“Buhaha! Now it’s my turn-”

“No! It can’t be like this!”

Petyr lashed out with his claws.

Instead of swinging her sword, Nara extended her left hand to ‘catch’ Petyr’s claws. Kagagagaga! A sharp metallic screech resonated from her hand.

But with the ‘partial barrier’ effect activated by the skill, her left hand wouldn’t be severed.

“Oops?!”

Even Petyr was momentarily taken aback. Had she just caught his claws with her bare hands?

Thankfully for Petyr, the distance between him and Shin Nara was very close. It was too late for her to swing or stab with her sword. Yet, she swung her right arm anyway.

“It doesn’t matter, it was all for this moment anyway, even if I die, I’ll make sure you – Petyr – will too.”

That was her plan. The damage might not be significant, but the sound was satisfyingly crisp.

Thud—–!

Her fist, clutching the sword handle, struck Petyr’s face hard. With a crack, Petyr’s jaw seemed to twist out of place.

Thud-thud-thud, Petyr’s body hit the ground and flew backward from the powerful blow, but being a Miyaw beastkin player, he quickly got back up. Nara knew that he had deliberately let his body fly to mitigate the damage.

“Buhaha, uhuhu… Is that all? Uhuh, is it?”

“The damned guy. Feels good to land at least one blow on you.”

Nara ground her teeth. She wasn’t sure how much longer she could hold out.

‘Leeha-ssi- no, it’s impossible for him to rush to me in the vast, uncharted Erika Continent without a map…’

A strange mix of hope and despair shook her. With Petyr’s expression turning serious, she knew she had to fight even more desperately.

“You might think you’ve always had the upper hand because of the Sacred Knights at the Holy Grill’s palace, buhahaha. Just a one-step difference in ranking makes a huge difference. I’ll make you feel it, ma’am Shin.”

Step, step, step. The Miyaw straightened his back and walked towards Shin Nara.

His words were true. The battles that had been equal or in Nara’s favor were surely influenced by the home-ground advantage.

“If you thought I would be easy to handle, you’re mistaken, Petyr-”

(To be continued…)
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 Rustle- Rustle-!

As Shin Nara, undeterred, swung her sword to regain her senses, a bush some distance away from her and Petyr rustled. Someone was emerging from it.

Both Nara and Petyr’s eyes widened simultaneously.

***

Nara: Leeha-ssi, Petyr-

“Kekek, so we should give them their favorite food-”

“Shh!”

Leeha put his finger to the lips of a hound paleo in front of him.

“Phew, what are you doing!”

“Shh, shh!”

Putting his hand over the mouth of the shape-shifting beast and shushing them like animals? This disrespectful act immediately decreased their affinity, but Leeha had no time to worry about that.

‘Petyr…? Could it be?’

Leeha: Nara-ssi?! Nara-ssi! Stall Petyr, I’ll be there soon!

The urgently called name, and the sudden cut-off of the whisper.

Despite Leeha’s anxious call, there was no response from Shin Nara. That alone was enough for Leeha to understand everything.

“You, you, if you keep doing this-”

“Sorry! I’ll make it up to you next time with something delicious! Puol! Blaugrunn-ssi! Let’s go, quickly!”

“Kwiit?! Kwiiiiit-!” 『Kyuu? Kyukyukyu!』

Suddenly, Leeha leaped onto the puol’s back, grabbing its mane as if to tear it out, and kicked its side. It was a blatant act of disloyalty to his pet, but fortunately, puol did not throw him off.

Kwiiit-!


The puol immediately sped up.

Blaugrunn, not understanding what was happening, clung to Leeha, crying out with a Kyuukyuu- sound.

“This way! This way! Faster! As fast as possible!”

“Kuiiiiiii——-!”

Even amidst this chaos, Leeha checked his friend’s list and pinpointed Nara’s location. A place he had marked on his map, on the way to the bull paleo village.

‘But why is Petyr there? Was he following Nara?’

Why follow her? The timing was odd.

Nara had been alone for several days already. If he was following her, why not strike at a more opportune moment? Why suddenly ambush her now after passing up so many chances?

‘There were so many opportunities. To pass them all up, and even future ones – No, that would mean he spent all five days of the expedition team’s advantage just tailing Nara, which would be insane, right?’

Despite finding it strange, Leeha had to accept it.

‘Yeah, that’s real madness…’

It was clear that Petyr wasn’t in his right mind. Leeha bit her lip and urged Fuols on.

The land of the dog paleos.

The emerald-glowing land was now behind them, and Shin Nara’s location was getting closer.

‘But it’ll still take at least 30 minutes. Damn, should I have just told her about the dog paleos first?’

The bull paleos were easier to gain affinity with, but their village was quite far from the dog paleo tribe. Even with Puol’s incredible speed, it would take another 30 minutes to reach where Nara was.

After breaking through the forest in front of them, running a little more through the meadow, and then entering another forest, Nara would be there.

“Run, run!”

Rustle-rustle-!

Fuols was faster than a car and as agile as a motorcycle. Even in the densely packed forest, he maintained his speed without much reduction.


『Kyuu, kyuuu!』

“Be patient, blaugrun-ssi! The twigs won’t scratch you, even if your scales are only of the hatchling-class!”

『Kyuuuu…』

Leeha’s face was also being struck by branches as they passed, so it was understandable that Blaugrunn was being fussy.

Just as they were about to break through the first forest, a shadow suddenly sprang out from the edge of the woods.

“Kwiiiiiiiiek———–!”

“Ah!”

Startled by the sudden stop, Leeha was flung forward, airborne for a moment. Fortunately, they were at the edge of the forest, so he didn’t hit any trees but rolled on the gravelly meadow.

“Ugh… what now?”

Though he didn’t take any damage thanks to Jellypong, Leeha was frustrated by the sudden interruption. The shadow that had jumped out was a user she recognized.

“Oh my, oh my, are you okay, Leeha-ssi?”

“Chiyou..?”

Chiyou was there.

“Are you alright?”

Chiyou looked genuinely concerned as she tried to help Leeha up.

However, Leeha didn’t accept her hand, instead choosing to get up on his own, retreating a bit from Chiyou.

‘Why are you here, Chiyou? This is… in the Erika Continent, and this is far from the Red Woods!’

“Why- why are you here…”

“Me? I got lost and have been wandering around. Is there a village nearby? Oh! Where were you going, Leeha-ssi? Is that a mount? Did you tame it?”

“No, uh…”


Despite Leeha clearly showing her wish to maintain distance, Chiyou didn’t back off but rather pressed on with more questions, trying to stick close to Leeha.

Leeha found Chiyou’s behavior baffling. Just wandering around because she was lost?

‘It’s a lie. She’s lying.’

Chiyou’s natural expression, looking relieved to find someone she knew, shouldn’t be trusted.

Leeha turned away without a word.

Chiyou stopped her from mounting Fuols by grabbing her arm. Leeha was startled.

“What are you doing?”

“Oh, did I startle you? Sorry. I asked you some questions, and you didn’t answer, so I thought you didn’t hear me…”

“I heard you. But I am under no obligation to answer.”

“Why are you getting angry? I’m not your enemy, Leeha-ssi. I was just curious about what you did during these precious 5 days…”

Chiyou’s voice trailed off, her face looking tearful.

Leeha’s sharp expression softened slightly at her acting.

‘Damn, she’s always so timely – too timely.’

Leeha hadn’t completely let her guard down around Chiyou. If an opportunity arose, she would be willing to talk with Chiyou, not out of friendliness but to probe for information.

‘If we talked here, I might get clues about what she’s been doing, her identity.’

But Leeha couldn’t do that now.

Leeha gave a slight bow to Chiyou and turned again.

“I’m very curious about what you did during these 5 days too, Chiyou-ssi, but unfortunately, I can’t talk right now.”

“Oh, why? Oh, you were on your way somewhere, weren’t you? Where are you going?”

“I’m going to- no, I don’t even have time to explain that to you.”

“If you can’t tell me where you’re going, then maybe why you’re going? It’s so vast here, and I feel so lost wandering alone, Leeha-ssi.”

Chiyou was indeed Chiyou.

‘I understand your intention. I’m not trying to detain a busy person’, her polite demeanor was clear enough for anyone to grasp.

But the reason for her interest in Leeha was not simple.

Chiyou’s interest, analysis, and desire to potentially recruit Leeha were natural, and there were other reasons too.

Chiyou: Petyr, haven’t you finished yet? I can’t keep Leeha occupied any longer.

It was to extend the time given to Petyr.

How Petyr appeared before Shin Nara and how Chiyou emerged in front of Leeha remained mysteries. While their mutual pursuit of targets was a priority, it was no easy task. The nimble and widely active Three Musketeers and Shin Nara, who traveled around paleo villages and other areas and focused on forming NPC relationships, were followed by Petyr and Chiyou. Nara occasionally noticed Chiyou, but her ‘enemy’ was only Petyr. Chiyou was a subject of caution, but not of significant importance unless she showed strange behavior.

As for the Three Musketeers, they were so engrossed in their competition that they couldn’t focus on their surroundings. Moreover, Petyr wasn’t an easy user to detect. If he chose to stealthily follow without attacking, identifying him was difficult.

Petyr’s appearance before Nara today was simple. Since he had been at the gorilla paleo tribe, Chiyou couldn’t pinpoint Nara’s location. So, he waited for her to surface.

Petyr, diligently following Leeha, inferred Nara’s movements from Leeha’s, guessing where she might head next.

All this was foreseen once the masters of information gathering and analysis joined forces.

‘Damn fool… Still hasn’t dealt with Nara? If he couldn’t kill her in this time, he shouldn’t have promised.’ Petyr had boasted he could kill her in under 10 minutes.

Chiyou, enacting the plan to cling to Leeha’s legs, hoped to impose a ‘debt’ on Petyr for future convenience. However, with no whisper from Petyr, Chiyou grew anxious.

Leeha was already mounting Fuols, clearly suspicious of Chiyou.

‘Maybe I should let her go? If Petyr has already finished off Nara and disappeared, but if I let her go too soon, I might get entangled in this mess-‘

Suddenly, a massive explosion erupted from the distant forest.

“What- What’s that?!”

“Gak!”

 『Kyuu, kyukyu!』

A pillar of fire shot up through the upper layers of the forest and into the sky, visible even from where Leeha and Chiyou stood. Leeha remembered seeing such a skill before.

‘Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh – No, that can’t be- I must go!’

Leeha spurred puol into action.

“Ha, Leeha-ssi! What was that sound-”

Chiyou’s pig-like cries were drowned out by puols’ quiieek! as Leeha zoomed away.

“… Tch. So much for that plan. But what was that explosion? Does Petyr have such high-level fire skills?”

Chiyou’s demeanor changed instantly from the tearful, startled girl to a calculating figure.

“Hmm… No, no. Considering Petyr hasn’t finished off Nara yet… probably some unexpected variable. Poor Petyr, hope he’s not too surprised. Might be logging out after a long time, huh?”

Chiyou had already concluded Petyr’s ‘failure’ as a fact, secretly hoping for his definite failure or even death. If Petyr had killed Nara too, more opportunities would arise, but it was too late for that. So, what had Chiyou gained during the expedition team’s advantage period?

“Five days and all I have is this indistinguishable animal? Sigh… Well, if Leeha really used that pig as a mount… I can extract all her recent movements and itinerary. That’s valuable enough.”

A small system window was visible in her view, indicating the success of her skill “Charm’s Gaze” and the information about its target.

(To be continued…)
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 “In case you thought I would be an easy target, you’re mistaken, Petyr.”

Rustle- Rustle-!

When Shin Nara landed a punch on Petyr’s face and he was rolling on the ground with a stern expression, an unexpected figure emerged amidst the rustling of the forest.

“…What? Petyr-nim? Shin Nara-nim?”

The fire mage hero’s descendant, Pyro, with a red band wrapped around his forehead, looked back and forth between Petyr and Shin Nara.

“Pyro-ssi!?”

“What are you doing here, both of you?”

As Pyro stood there somewhat bewildered, Petyr’s lips curled up slightly. The sudden appearance of this hero’s descendant was a surprise, but not the kind Petyr had expected.

“Buhaha, so it wasn’t a surprise after all.”

Petyr approached Shin Nara, his aura alone enough to tear both her and Pyro apart. Shin Nara stepped back cautiously, but Pyro moved towards both Shin Nara and Petyr, his face calm.

“Petyr-nim, you still have that weird way of talking. Ah, right. Shin Nara-nim, you know Leeha, right? Where is he now?”

“Me, me?”

“That swindler guy, he said he would teach me some underwater breathing achievement, and something about transforming and swimming in the sea! He promised to show me! I was number one in fishing, but that swindler just ran away. Ah, just thinking about it makes me angry. Where are you, Leeha?”

Shin Nara was perplexed. What’s with this guy?

‘Doesn’t he understand the situation at all?’

Why was he asking about Leeha in the midst of this scene?

Shin Nara understood the reason behind his queries, having heard about the incident during her voyage. But in this situation, to bring up such a topic?

She didn’t even know how to respond.

“Buhaha, I always thought you were a fool, but to be an actual fool, huh? Buhaha, in our country, there’s a saying that kids who like playing with fire have lower intelligence than average.”

Petyr laughed. His confidence stemmed from his own abilities. From the information he gathered observing users during the voyage, Pyro wasn’t a variable to consider.


Overflowing with energy but near a fool.

That was Petyr’s assessment of Pyro. However, Petyr didn’t know something.

“What? What did you just say?”

“Buhaha, do I need to say it twice? This is why talking to fools is so hard.”

“Don’t pick a fight with me, I have business with Shin Nara-nim, so back off.”

Pyro’s body started emitting white steam.

Petyr flinched momentarily, but as his claws grew longer and sharper, he showed no signs of fear. Moreover, the time limit on the spatial binding barrier was almost up, and Petyr knew Shin Nara was waiting for that moment.

“You think I’m going to back off when I’ve made prior arrangements? Buhaha, Pyro, Pyro, you foolish friend! If you help me kill Shin Nara, I’ll tell you where Leeha is.”

“What? You know where Leeha is?”

“Of course, buhaha, of course! Don’t you want to know?”

Petyr sidestepped like a crab, shaking his hips. His absurd behavior slowed Pyro’s steps, which was quite evident.

Shin Nara was the most confused.

‘How does Petyr know where Leeha-ssi is?’

She briefly checked her friend list, and Leeha’s location was constantly changing, indicating rapid movement. The only reason for such speed was clear to Shin Nara.

“Pyro-ssi! Don’t be deceived by Petyr! If you help me, I’ll take you to Leeha-ssi right away!”

“Buhaha, it would be easier to trust me, Pyro! But fine, if you insist on helping Shin Ma’am, I’d like to see how tough a flame sorcerer’s body is. Ahng!”

Petyr made a biting gesture in the air. Pyro’s expression changed as he listened to their conversation.

“… So, here’s the thing.”

The white steam from his body intensified.

“Didn’t both of you know that I’ve been looking for Leeha? Not just at the end of the voyage, but even on the day we set up the mana relay tower, I chased Leeha all over.”


The steam grew stronger. Shin Nara stepped back, feeling the heat emanating from Pyro.

‘Is it getting hot…?’

Step. Step.

Pyro’s expression was changing, and Petyr sensed the unusual aura too.

“These past few days, asking everyone I meet where Leeha is, what he’s doing… and no one told me. Everyone treats me like a fool.”

“That, that’s because they didn’t know. But I really do know!”

“Buhaha, I know too! I know, I kn- Ah!”

“For 5 days, burning useless monsters… and I couldn’t even find Leeha. And now suddenly, two people appear, claiming they know his whereabouts, trying to lure me in with promises?”

Fssssssssst!

A sound like boiling water whistled from the top of Pyro’s head.

Petyr, who had been approaching Shin Nara, quickly retreated. Shin Nara too had to use all her defensive skills. She had an idea of what was coming next.

“Who do you take me for a fool?! Flame Pillar of Heaven!”

Fwoooosh———–!

An immense pillar of fire erupted, engulfing the surrounding area. Shin Nara and Petyr both had to react quickly to avoid the scorching blast. Pyro’s rage had reached a boiling point, and his powers were unleashed in full force.

A gigantic pillar of fire, connecting earth and sky, erupted from Pyro’s body.

“Buhiiiiit! They say to beware when a fool gets angry, and that was indeed true!”

“Damn, this heat is-”

“Bring it on!”

The flame pillar intensified, reacting to Pyro’s voice, shooting higher into the sky.

‘Is he amplifying it?’


‘Can he really inject more mana into a skill after casting it?’

Petyr and Shin Nara braced for defense, but the heat surpassed their expectations. Shin Nara’s cloak started to singe at the edges, and Petyr’s claws were close to wilting. His poison-coated claws had already evaporated their toxins. At this point, even Petyr couldn’t laugh it off.

Especially since Pyro’s positioning was so critical.

Caught up in his excitement, Pyro was now positioned between Petyr and Shin Nara, unleashing his fury on them both! Petyr regretted his choice of direction.

He couldn’t attack Pyro directly, and circling around him meant leaving Shin Nara unattended. Once separated from Shin Nara, he wouldn’t be able to approach her again before Pyro ceased his skill.

‘If only I had anticipated Pyro’s intervention.’

Pyro, a powerhouse in burst damage, was known for his simplicity and brutish nature. Petyr’s initial plan was to subtly manipulate him against Shin Nara. It would have been better to attack her from behind…

‘Using such an unsophisticated skill, he must have poured all his mana into it. Buhaha, I can’t tell if I overestimated or underestimated him.’

Was Pyro using this skill to save Shin Nara, or was he just recklessly wasting it in his excitement?

Petyr couldn’t tell if Pyro was foolish or calculated. He had to make a choice.

“Buhaha… Shin Ma’am, you just barely saved your life today. But in the new continent where the Sacred Knights can’t exert their power… I wonder how long you’ll last. Buhaha!”

As Petyr’s voice echoed beyond the flames, Shin Nara glared at him. With the spatial bind lifted, there was no need to hold back.

Swish, Petyr disappeared into the bushes, and Shin Nara finally let out a sigh of relief.

“Where are you going, Petyr? Bring Leeha-”

“Stop, Pyro! Move and your head flies off!”

Leeha had arrived.

As Pyro was about to chase after Petyr, he halted at the sound of Leeha’s voice and slowly turned towards it.

“Ha Leeha…”

Shin Nara wondered if Pyro’s eyes had turned into flames as well.

Leeha gripped her Black Bass sniper rifle more tightly, connected to his Stabilizer. Though he aimed at Pyro, he didn’t miss checking Shin Nara’s condition.

“Shin Nara-ssi, are you okay?”

“Leeha-ssi!? Yes, fortunately- but what was that-”

“Kuiiit, kuiit-!”

“Kyuu, kyuuu!”

Shin Nara was momentarily flustered.

A huge pig-headed mount leaped out from behind Leeha, and a bronze dragon hatchling clinging to its mane and weeping… An odd combination.

“Where have you been popping out from, huh?”

“What do you mean? If anyone saw, they’d think I ran away from Pyro-ssi.”

“Ha! You didn’t run away? Didn’t you promise to tell me about it?”

“Ah, that- I was going to tell you now since the 5 days are up. I did what I could at that time, and then, of course, I was going to tell you! Don’t jump to conclusions, please cancel that skill first.”

Leeha, though flustered, calmly and clearly spoke, trying to pacify Pyro.

‘Petyr’s gone. Shin Nara seems okay – did he flee?’

The fact that the fire pillar was Pyro’s skill, and not an explosion, was surprising, but the continuation of the skill was also noteworthy. Leeha knew that the size of a magic spell and the amount of mana it requires are somewhat proportional.

‘Such a tremendous fire pillar must require a significant amount of mana… but it can’t be just about creating a fire pillar. There must be a follow-up skill.’

Leeha swallowed hard, thinking about the potential scale of Pyro’s next move. Could the fire pillar spread out in all directions? Though she could withstand it with her Platinum Shield and Jellypong, it would be no easy feat. And the task of protecting Shin Nara as well would only add to the complexity.

Effectively, Leeha had two choices.

Her index finger slowly moved on the trigger. Despite the rushed adjustment of his click control, he was confident he could make a successful shot. Even if it wasn’t a headshot, he could certainly pierce Pyro’s upper body.

He felt confident.

But was killing Pyro the right answer?

‘I need to talk him down…’

There was another way. After all, making an enemy out of such a formidable user was not something Leeha would find pleasant.

(To be continued…)
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 “Really! I’m telling you, it’s a mermaid transformation skill! Pyro-ssi, you loved it, remember? You thought it was your weakness, fighting near water! You were excited about the effects it could have underwater, and the potential achievements!”

“Right, I remember. You remember my words so well, yet you ran away without teaching me.”

Pyro’s lips twisted into a bitter smile, sending a chill down Leeha’s spine. The thought of pulling the trigger intensified.

“Really. A promise. I did promise to teach you, and the fish you caught while fishing were a tremendous help during the voyage. Why would I lie?”

Yet, Leeha didn’t pull the trigger. Instead, he lowered the barrel of her Black Bass.

“Just five days and you’re this upset! Isn’t that right? Don’t you trust me? This won’t solve anything.”

Leeha’s suggestion of peace, even in the most dangerous moment, held persuasive power. Pyro’s eyebrows twitched, his fiery brows cooling down. Leeha looked calmly into his eyes, waiting for his response. Did he really need to shoot him? The band around Pyro’s forehead, which had been glowing amidst the fire pillar, started to dim.

Frruk, frruk, frruk—

Soon after, a sound like an old car’s engine dying down was heard. The fire pillar, which seemed to reach the sky, began to shrink.

Fsshhhh…

Black smoke and white steam poured from Pyro’s body. The hot but not lethal breeze brushed past Shin Nara and Leeha.

“If it’s a lie again… I won’t hold back next time.”

Pyro slowly approached Leeha.

Finally, Leeha could afford a smile.

“Just give it a try.”

“Again, with that swindler tone-”

“What does the tone matter? As long as I provide you with valuable information, that’s what counts, right?”

“-Grrr…”

Despite feeling uneasy, remembering he had been tricked by such talk during the voyage, Pyro refrained from questioning further.

True to his nickname, he grabbed Leeha’s hand for a firm handshake, choosing to believe her once more.


‘What in the world is happening here…?’

Shin Nara watched, bewildered, as the situation unfolded. Petyr and Chiyou’s meticulous plans to capture them had been completely derailed by Pyro’s unexpected intervention. Leeha’s offer to share information with Pyro wasn’t just a ploy to defuse the situation.

‘What if this person joins our side?’

The thought of having a user with flame magic comparable to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was reassuring beyond words.

Leeha’s genuine smile seemed to unsettle Pyro. He felt as if he’d been caught in another grand scheme.

“Petyr said he knows my location?”

“Yes. You heard him, right, Pyro-ssi?”

“Umm, I was a bit… excited at the time, but I did hear it. Definitely.”

Pyro, with crossed arms, closed his eyes and nodded.

Leeha and Shin Nara exchanged looks, thinking ‘just like his job, his personality is the same’, but they didn’t voice it. Did his excitement really make him forget everything?

“How could Petyr know my location… Or was it just a bluff?”

“I don’t think so. I’ve… faced him quite a bit.”

Leeha questioned again, but Shin Nara shook her head. Having faced Petyr several times since her days in the Sacred Knights, she knew him well.

‘He deceives, but he doesn’t lie.’

Petyr was a truthful assassin in his words, though not in his actions. He had shaken Shin Nara’s mind more than once with his sharp, cutting remarks, and that was precisely why she suffered.

“Petyr was first with Kidd, Luger… and after leaving there, he followed me? No, there was nothing special in that prairie-”

Leeha’s eyes widened as she recalled something else amiss.

“-Chiyou!”

“Yes?”

“That dancer lady?”


Leeha remembered encountering Chiyou on her way to Shin Nara.

Wasn’t her appearance at that time and place too unnatural? Why there and then?

‘If Chiyou and Petyr were working together?’

They might have switched their targets. The specifics of such a detailed plan were unclear, but at the very least, both were persons of interest to Leeha.

“The dancer lady was no ordinary person either. Crafty as a hundred foxes-”

“Kwiiiit———!”

“-Whoa?! What’s that?”

Everyone, including Pyro, was startled by the sudden commotion.

“Kyuu, kyuu?!”

“Puol? What’s wrong?”

“Kwiit, kwiiit—!”

Puol, who had been grazing nearby, suddenly began to glow. He emitted rough cries, coiling and even headbutting a tree.

Leeha quickly opened her pet window.

‘The loyalty is-‘

Loyalty, which he always maintained around 80%, was rapidly dropping, now at 40%. It continued to plummet – 39, 38, 37% – a pace she had never experienced before.

“Why is it dropping so fast- No, first, food-”

“Kwiiiit———!”

Leeha hurriedly searched for food, but Fuols’ tantrum was faster. Acting completely out of character, he charged towards those nearby.

If puol’s massive body combined with his immense speed collided, the impact would be significant.

“Leeha-ssi?! What’s this- Oof!”


Luckily, the puol’s first target was Shin Nara. As a swift warrior, she barely reacted to its speed. Puols snorted and slowed down, then changed direction.

“Puols, stop! Eat this first!”

“Kyuu, kyuu-!”

Despite Leeha and Blaugrunn’s attempts to calm him, fuols was beyond reason, ignoring even the food thrown at it and trampling it instead.

‘He is ignoring food?’

An animal that normally chased the scent of meat was now ignoring it.

“Kwiiiit———!”

Puols turned its eyes towards Pyro and charged like a bullet. Pyro had no time to react to the silent surprise attack.

“Cough!”

“Quiit, quiit—!”

Pyro was knocked over by Puols’ headbutt. Holding his ribs, his expression twisted in pain.

“Damn beast.”

Fwoosh!

Flames erupted from Pyro’s hands, but Fuols, undeterred by the threat, squealed and quickly ran off in another direction.

“Puols! Come back!”

『Kyuuu, kyuuu-!』

‘Dududududu…’, fuols ignored the calls of Leeha and Blaugrunn, continuing to run towards an unknown destination.

Leeha was flustered. Chase after Puols, who even ignored food and fled? It was too late for that. And what about the user currently behind him, preparing who knows what?

“Wait! Pyro-ssi! Don’t do it!”

“What do you mean don’t? If a taming pet goes wild, it’s over! 『Will-o’-the-Wisp!』

“No-”

Fwoosh, fwoosh!

Before Leeha could stop him, Pyro had already used his skill. Two balls of fire that had risen in his hands began to chase after Fuols, rapidly avoiding obstacles even in the thickly wooded forest.

‘Control after casting…?’

Pyro extended his hands, delicately steering the path of the flames like a potter shaping clay. While most skills become independent after casting, the Fire Mage ‘Descendant of the Hero’ had a unique touch.

But the amazement stopped there. No matter how fast Puols was, he couldn’t outrun the projectile.

Boom, boom!

Mixed with the twin explosions, a long wail of a pig was heard.

Leeha squeezed her eyes shut, then reopened them to see the ashen corpse of Fuols in the distance.

“Puols…”

It hadn’t been long. It was almost embarrassing to say she had grown attached.

What Leeha felt was not so much sorrow, but regret.

‘I could have spent more time with him…’

“Ahem, well… I mean… sorry about that. But, as you know…”

Pyro struggled to explain, partly due to Leeha’s downcast mood.

“It’s okay, Pyro-ssi.”

Leeha faced him squarely. What’s lost is lost. Now, it was time to focus on what could be gained.

“Yes, yes.”

“You owe me one.”

“Owe you? That’s not how it is, right?”

Pyro was flustered as Leeha brushed it off. He had expected thanks for dealing with a rampaging monster, not an obligation.

Of course, Leeha had her logic.

“A taming pet going wild doesn’t mean it’s over. Besides, it hadn’t gone wild yet. I could have tamed it again. Do you have any idea how much effort it took to catch that thing?”

“That, of course- for a non-tamer to succeed in taming and maintaining…”

“Exactly. You understand. So, don’t expect unlimited goodwill after recklessly killing my pet.”

“Ha, haileeha-ssi! Who does that?”

“I don’t know, I don’t know. I was going to help you get a strength and intelligence achievement, even a spot in the Hall of Fame. Now I’m upset.”

As Leeha played hard to get, Pyro was at a loss.

But what could he say in response? The sudden scolding followed by an unexpected carrot was too much for the inexperienced, hot-blooded Pyro to handle.

“Ah, the achievement- then- I’m sorry. But as far as I know about tamed pets-”

“No, that’s okay. No need to argue over a dead pet. Instead, promise me one thing?”

“What is it? If it’s within my power!”

Pyro’s eyes sparkled.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha, with a look of tremendous loss on his face, sighed and slowly opened his mouth.

“If I ask for help later, you have to help me at least once.”

“Huh? Is that all?”

“Is that all? You have to prioritize my request without considering the time or place.”

Shin Nara tilted her head in thought while watching Pyro ponder. She was intrigued by Leeha’s mentioned keyword, ‘an achievement in the new continent that increases strength and intelligence’.

Nara: Leeha-ssi, about that achievement you mentioned…

Leeha: Ah, yes. It’s the cow paleo intimacy achievement I mentioned to Nara. Nara: You’re going there anyway, right?

Leeha: Yes, that’s right. Well, even if I didn’t mention it if Nara and I move together, Pyro will follow, and he’ll get the achievement incidentally… but I thought it’s better to make a ‘deal’ in advance.

Shin Nara gaped at Leeha.

Nara: My goodness… Leeha-ssi, you do realize you sound a bit like a villain right now?

Pyro, who hadn’t yet heard about the mermaid transformation or other information, would follow Leeha to hear the story. While Shin Nara was increasing intimacy with the cow paleos, he would be doing similar work. In essence, Pyro could gain all the information and achievements he needed just by silently following Leeha!

Leeha was essentially extracting a ‘help me chance’ from Pyro using the information he would have to share anyway as leverage.

Leeha: Oh, come on. A villain? I just painfully realized the need for one more ally to survive in the new continent. And who knows… if we get closer, maybe I can find out about another achievement related to agility from Pyro.

So, Leeha was subtly extracting more achievement information from Pyro?

Shin Nara wanted to say that was a bit too much, but it was already too late.

“Alright! Someday, just once, without complaint, manly! I’ll help.”

Now that Pyro had accepted, he couldn’t escape Leeha’s trap.

“Okay! Let’s go! Blaugrunn-ssi, we have to walk for a while, so hop on!”

『Kyukyu, KyukyuKyukyu!』

The bronze dragon hatchling flapped and perched on Leeha’s head.


Pyro, watching Leeha with the dragon, felt an inexplicable sense of trust, but that was exactly how he was being properly fooled. Moreover, all of this stemmed from ‘the death of Puols’.

***

“What, what?! The pet I snatched away with 『Charming Gaze』 died, didn’t it? Did Ha Leeha notice?”

Chiyou, far away from Leeha, Nara, and Pyro in a meadow, was clearly flustered just by looking at the system window – revealing who really helped whom. Although Leeha risked being discovered for all his movements since leaving the gorilla paleos’ underground city, it was actually Pyro who saved him… but ironically, Pyro was the one being fooled.

Of course, neither Leeha nor Pyro could know this fact. Wary of another danger like Petyr emerging, the trio cautiously headed towards the cow paleo village together. After reaching and hearing all the information from Leeha, there was a minor(?) incident of Pyro erupting into a pillar of fire, but anyway, the second and third users to achieve the cow paleo intimacy achievement were soon determined.

***

“Still, I told you how to increase intimacy quickly, so it’s not like I lied. Without my help, would Pyro-ssi have been able to do it so quickly?”

“Uh, well – ummm… so –”

Pyro was at a loss, unable to determine if he had been tricked or not. Once caught up in Leeha’s pace, it was inevitable.

“Anyway, we have less than an hour left now.”

As the trio had become somewhat closer during their journey and time in the cow paleo village, Shin Nara could speak with a lighter heart. Leeha, too, understood the ‘time’ she was referring to.

“Yes. The real exploration of the new continent is about to begin.”

One hour before the Warp Gate opened. Various users from the Lope continent, including those wanting just a taste of the new continent, would flock in countless numbers.

『A Warp Gate of the Warp Gate Association has been created.』

『From this time, all users can freely travel between the Lope continent and the Erika continent.』

When the new sun rose in the Erika continent, a notification window appeared in front of all users.

***

“Ugh, I’m tired.”

Creak, creak, Leeha pushed his wheelchair towards the kitchen. Normally his mother, who would wake him and prepare meals, had recently stopped doing so.

『Son, make sure to eat well! I’m going to meet with the interior design company!』


“Heh, she’s really enjoying herself.”

Leeha smiled, looking at the small note on the table. Ever since signing the store contract, his mother’s face seemed to brighten every day, and it showed even in her notes.

After the opening of the Warp Gate to the new continent, Leeha parted ways with Nara and Pyro. The two logged out immediately, but Leeha did not. Only after walking to the cow paleo village on foot and completing the intimacy building did he log out.

‘Still, I have the carp paleo and wild boar paleo left to deal with. Need to get those done quickly.’

Originally planning to conquer all four paleos in 24 hours, his plan changed due to the Shin Nara and Petyr incident, and then getting involved with Pyro and moving together.

‘Well, at least I didn’t lose anything. I managed to get two agility achievements from Pyro too… hehe.’

Leeha chuckled, thinking of the earnest young man’s expression. Different from Kijung, Kidd, or Luger, he was an amusing person to tease – his reactions and the suspense of not knowing when he might explode were enjoyable(?).

“Speaking of which, today is… just 2 weeks left.”

Leeha checked his calendar. He had to depart for Hong Kong in exactly 14 days. While using Middle Earth’s time would extend the perceived duration, it already felt imminent to Leeha.

“Ugh, really. Why suddenly Hong Kong? Need to buy a good translator. I don’t even speak foreign languages… Ah, what an inconvenience.”

The excitement and apprehension of his first overseas trip. While he grumbled, Leeha’s expression was bright. What to wear in Hong Kong, what to pack, how many nights would it be?

‘Ah, right. How many days am I staying? I only noted the departure date.’

Leeha realized something he had overlooked. Even upon rechecking his e-ticket, it was the same. The return flight to Korea wasn’t listed on the plane ticket prepared by Ram Hwayeon.

“What…? Why?”

Kidnapping? The thought was absurd enough to consider only briefly. It was an idea that had been laughed off until now, but suddenly, there was a need to understand the ‘purpose’ behind Ram Hwayeon’s preparation of the plane tickets.

“I guess I have no choice but to ask within Middle Earth. I need to stop by Gaza City as well, it’s been a while.”

There was a need to investigate not only the settlement money but also the suspicious relationship between Petyr and Chiyou. It was necessary to gather intelligence from Bottleneck and, if possible, mark the achievements of intimacy with the remaining two paleos for a cleaner operation.

‘First, I’ll start by checking the community while eating!’

Even while snacking on something from the fridge, there was a persistence in checking the community. Leeha’s entire attention was focused on Middle Earth. This obsessive playing pattern was the source of monstrous strength.

『Title: How do I increase intimacy with the Red Goat paleo, these sons of a gun?』


『Title: Any users out of Red Wood? Monsters keep popping up like crazy?』

『Title: LRe: There’s a path opened by Byulcho Guild. It’s manageable if you take that route.』

『Title: Ah, even the special grade crystal balls can’t save between the Old and New Continents, damn it.』

『Title: Look at the wood prices in Kraven’s auction house, it’s crap now.』

『Title: I heard Alexander already killed a mystical creature, is it true?』

『Title: Is the talk about that even real?』

『Title: Look at the level of the New Continent. To solo you need at least level 250.』

Most of the topics were inevitably related to the New Continent.

Perhaps because the concept of ‘users’ was instilled in the paleos, they didn’t immediately attack all users like they did when the first expedition members arrived at the New Continent.

However, the difficulty in raising intimacy was extremely high, and just a few offending words could easily turn them hostile. Once hostile, you’d be expelled from the tribe.

If you didn’t leave and resist, some users even ended up getting killed.

In other words, users who didn’t approach with an open attitude like the New Continent expedition members, even if they managed to reach Erika’s New Continent, would end up wandering without a special sanctuary.

‘Even if I can’t buy potions or equipment from the paleo tribes, there are warp gates, but that won’t be easy. Using the warp gates between the Old and New Continents would cost a fortune every time.’

The problem was that ordinary or special-grade crystal balls used by regular users couldn’t be saved and be used between the Old and New Continents.

You either had to use the expensive warp gates powered by mana relay towers or use at least rare-grade crystal balls.

‘Sigh, no matter what, rare-grade crystal balls cost a fortune… Ah! But how much was it?’

Leeha didn’t know. He had never bought a crystal ball with his own money. The high-quality crystal ball with at least 20 slots given by Ram Hwajung was a ‘rare-grade’ crystal ball.

Most users complaining in the community hadn’t even made it out of Red Wood.

Fortunately, the path chosen by Leeha, Kidd, and Luger had no monsters, but the vast Red Wood was infested with significant monsters.

As Leeha read the posts, he also came across several familiar and surprising names.

‘Kijung, that guy, is raising his fame again by hunting non-stop.’

Byulcho, sweeping up monsters in Red Wood and protecting the newbies of the New Continent. Of course, they were hunting because they wanted to, but the praises for their good deeds were growing day by day.

And another rumor was about Alexander.

‘A mystical creature killed, no way…’

The advantage for the New Continent expedition members was 5 days.

But to call it ‘just’ would be an understatement; they were a race that used time most efficiently. The fact that the Three Musketeers were investigating Kaztor and then Leeha investigating several paleo tribes was proof enough. What could Alexander, who was with the Ancient Gold Dragon Bailephus, be doing in the meantime?

‘But really, it seems crazy, but it might be possible for that guy.’

(To be continued…)
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 He might have really killed a mystical creature!

It was even possible that he had slain several mystical creatures. Remembering his encounters with Harhei and the gorilla paleo, Leeha nodded. After all, mystical creatures also had ranks.

With Bailephus and Alexander’s capabilities, handling lower-ranked mystical creatures would have been manageable.

“Bailephus seemed unusually excited even while talking to Aibex. Hmm, it might be true after all.”

Planning to subtly inquire about this later, Leeha summarized the information he gathered from the community.

“The wood stockpilers are in a real mess now. At one point, a ‘Perfectly Dried Redwood’ of 10m length was valued at 20 gold, and now it’s barely worth silver…”

20 gold was a significant amount in real currency. Apart from a few big players who had hoarded early, most users who jumped in later were now suffering losses.

“Hopefully, the market will recover someday. Now, I should focus on my own tasks!”

Leeha wheeled himself to log into Middle Earth.

First greeted by the paleo dogs, Leeha headed to the territory inhabited by the boar paleo.

“Wabong-ah-!? What?”

“Was with Puuls- Wabong- together-what?”

Leeha barely managed to control his disgust at the abnormally developed leg and back muscles of the two disproportionate paleo. He quickly pulled out food from his bag, knowing their dietary preferences.

“Woah, wabong…”

“Wabong, wabong.”

The paleo sniffed around the rabbit meat paired with sweet potato mousse. Leeha grinned as he watched them. Building 100% familiarity with the boar paleo took him just about 10 hours.

Cooking skills really were the best! He even thought if he had focused on cooking instead of musketeering, he might have already gathered all the needed money.

“There’s such a place?!”

“Yeah! A much, much larger body of water than this lake here. It’s so salty you can taste it.”

“Woongwoong! Impossible!”


“Can’t you tell from my appearance? Look, I got this as a gift from meeting them!”

Shwooooosh!

Leeha swiftly swam around.

His lower body, resembling a tuna, moved fluidly through the water. The sight of the golden carp fluttering its long whiskers in delight was a testimony to Leeha’s transformation.

“Jellypong, now!”

Stretching out, Jellipong shifted from a vest to a large fin on Leeha’s back, reducing water resistance and enhancing his swimming.

Leaping like a dolphin over the vast lake and then diving back in, Leeha’s movements were the epitome of a perfect mermaid.

“Woongwoong! To think such a creature exists, a different species called ‘mermaids’!”

“Right. Though different from Shoer-nim, I believe our species can coexist peacefully.”

“Will they accept our children as their own?”

“Hmm, probably? They are peaceful higher beings, so I’m sure it’ll be fine.”

“Woongwoong!”

The carp paleo’s guardian deity, Shoer, opened his mouth in wonder. Bubbles rose to the surface of the lake. The first time Leeha saw their transformed state, he mistook them for ‘fishmen’ because they looked similar to salmon but had arms and legs.

“Good thing I didn’t shoot thinking they were merpeople. Jellypong saved me there”, Leeha thought. Jellypong had stopped his finger from pulling the trigger, interpreting the murmuring sounds as “They are different from fishmen.”

Only then did Leeha realize that there were mystical creatures in the water. It made sense; if there were paleo in the sky like the black crane paleo, why not in the water?

“I’ll definitely introduce you next time, Shoer-nim.”

“Of course. I’m very close with the mermaids. I’ll speak well of you. Try the seawater too while you’re there!”

“Muheungheung, muheung!”

Not sure if freshwater fish would be okay with seawater, but as a mystical creature, Shoer shouldn’t die from it. Leeha confidently made these promises, aligning with Shoer’s mood.

『Achieved 100% familiarity with the mystical creature Shoer and his Carp paleo.』


『Achievement: The Carp of the Light-Swallowing Lake (A+)』

The achievement’s rewards were impressive, and since Leeha was the first to register it, he received 200% of the original rewards. Even without the Merperson Transformation skill, one could achieve this by building familiarity with paleo on the lake’s shore.

Leeha was surprised it was A+ level, but he hadn’t realized the difficulty due to his abilities and the significant role of ‘Erika Continent’s Common Fame’.

“Then I’ll take my leave, Shoer-nim.”

“Muheung, muheung, come play again!”

“I will! I’ll bring delicious food from the other continent next time!”

Leeha smiled warmly at Shoer’s majestic whiskers, imagining how surreal it would be to describe the immense size of the goldfish mystical creature. After leaving the water, he saved his location and activated his warp crystal.

As one of the explorers with the most territories secured in the new continent, it was time for Leeha to return to the old continent.

The warp transition was slightly disorienting, but he arrived safely in his office in Gaza City.

“Welcome back, lord-nim.” greeted the NPC, Paytor, who presented him with a pile of administrative documents. Despite his initial happiness to be back, Leeha was overwhelmed by the immediate workload.

Complaining about the lack of rest, Leeha realized Paytor’s excitement was not for his return but for someone to take care of the pending work. While the NPC’s intentions were pure, Leeha couldn’t help but feel a bit exploited.

Even as the night fell in Middle Earth, the lord’s office in Gaza City remained brightly lit. Leeha was too engrossed in his work to notice the light knocking on his office door.

Paytor: Leeha-nim, it’s Paytor.

As Leeha was scrutinizing last week’s income and expenditure, noting Bottleneck’s significant spending and earnings, he mumbled about the armory’s profits and a joint development project for water-resistant weapons.

Paytor: Mayor Leeha, Paytor here. You have a visitor.

“Guess I’ll review this in detail later, especially with the Scope issue… At least the finances are balanced”, Leeha thought, appreciating Paytor’s efficient management.

The door creaked open.

“Please, come in.”

“Thank you.”

The sharp, high-toned voice responding to Paytor finally drew Leeha’s attention away from the paperwork.


Click-clack, the sound of approaching footsteps. Leeha looked up from the pile of documents to see red hair.

“Ram Hwayeon?!”

“Hard work being a lord, isn’t it?”

“How did you-”

“Just cold water for me, please.”

“Yes, Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

Ram Hwayeon entered the office with ease and sat opposite Leeha, crossing her legs casually as if this were Castle Dale and not Gaza City.

Even Paytor seemed to act like her butler. Leeha had a vague idea of what was happening.

(To be continued…)
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 “Did you come when I wasn’t here?”

“Obviously. Geez, have you forgotten everything I told you? Did you think the city would crumble if left to the NPC for too long?”

“No wonder! No wonder the financial flow was so neat! The balancing of the accounts was-”

“How about starting with a thank you?”

The reason why all the documents Leeha reviewed late into the night were impeccably organized! Ram Hwayeon, with no official authority now, had been meddling here and there, an act quietly tolerated by Paytor, the butler-like NPC. Although all approvals were under Paytor’s name, there had been a ‘shadow deputy’ advising and assisting him – Ram Hwayeon!

Leeha stared at her, mouth agape, as she casually drank the cold water Paytor had brought her. Despite her cheeky, biting remarks, how could Leeha possibly dislike her?

“Cough, thank you. I never imagined you’d care so much about my city.”

“What? You didn’t know? That’s a bit harsh.”

“No, I mean, you’re so busy, I thought you wouldn’t have time for me.”

Not just Castle Dale, but consider how many cities Ram Hwayeon’s Hwahong Guild currently holds. Despite having specialists at her side, she handles almost everything personally. Leeha had never imagined she would extend her care to his Gaza City.

“Even though I’m busy, you – well… Cough, cough.”

Ram Hwayeon suddenly coughed, unusual in Middle Earth.

“Why didn’t you tell me sooner?”

“What?”

“If I had known Ram Hwayeon helped, I wouldn’t have had to recheck all these documents.”

“I warned you about trusting too easily! Even I-”

“No, I trust you, Ram Hwayeon. Thank you.”

Leeha smiled at her, and Ram Hwayeon, about to drink water, met his gaze and couldn’t look away. Blushing, she quickly turned her head, tucking her long red hair behind her ear. Holding the water cup awkwardly, she fanned herself hastily.

“Oh, it’s suddenly hot. Well, that’s enough of that! How was the new continent? I heard from Hwajung, but…”

“It was okay. Yeah, good. You need achievements, right? Heh, I’ve already uncovered lots of achievements in the new continent. I’ll tell you a few as payback for looking after Gaza City.”


“Wow, Leeha, showing such confidence? Usually, you’re so timid.”

“Timid? Watch it, or you’ll get a scolding.”

As Leeha playfully laughed, Ram Hwayeon finally smiled too.

“Okay. I’ll visit the new continent with Hwajung soon. I hear there’s a plan to send out from the royal palace.”

“From the royal palace?”

“The new continent doesn’t belong to anyone yet.”

“Right. It’s practically the land of the natives.”

“Yes. There might not even be a settler village, so it seems each nation might build towns on the new continent. I only know about Fibiel, but if they’re doing it, minis and Kraven will too.”

“A land grab? In the new continent?”

“Well, they can’t openly fight like during the ‘National War’. They’ll be tied under the Pope’s name until the Demon King’s Fragments are eradicated. But they’ll argue that forward bases are needed to eradicate the Fragments, that human forces must be united, and a village must be established as a starting point for exploring the new continent. With such reasoning, even the Pope will have to agree, right?”

Leeha frowned as he listened to Ram Hwayeon’s explanation. However, Leeha had somewhat anticipated this development. What was the reason behind Shin Nara’s participation in the new continent expedition? From the moment she was appointed as the ‘Fibiel Inspector’ by the Fibiel royal palace, she had a rough idea of what would unfold on the new continent.

“A world exclusively for humans… No, not just humans. If various races including Wood Elves were to enter-”

What about the Paleos? They had individualistic tendencies, but one of their defining characteristics was ‘protecting their territory.’ Paleos and mystical creatures didn’t encroach on each other’s territories, allowing for peaceful and independent coexistence.

But what about humans? If a village expands into two, and those two into a city, and the city fortifies with high walls…

“Of course, being human… expansion is inevitable.”

Leeha couldn’t help but envision a troubling future.

“Why so serious?”

“Oh, it’s nothing.”

“You’re probably worrying about the NPCs, as usual.”

Ram Hwayeon chuckled, and Leeha was taken aback.


“How did you know?” he wanted to ask but refrained, feeling like he would lose(?) if he did, yet Ram Hwayeon seemed to see right through him.

“Ah, everything’s alright with your Hong Kong schedule, right?”

“Oh! Yes, let’s talk about that. What’s the deal with that ticket?”

“Problem?”

“Why did you go to such lengths to get those tickets…”

“Good. We’ll talk when you come. I’m leaving now. Don’t forget! You absolutely can’t forget!”

“What? Why Hong Kong-”

Whoosh…

She disappeared using instant teleportation, leaving Leeha bewildered.

“What’s happening?”

His gaze lingered where she had been, Leeha couldn’t fathom the reason for her visit. She hadn’t mentioned anything about the financial settlement from Castle Dale, leaving him puzzled. He confirmed through the friend window that Ram Hwayeon had returned to Castle Dale but didn’t feel like whispering to her.

‘What’s she hiding?’

He knew she wouldn’t answer even if he asked. Leeha tidied up the documents touched by Ram Hwayeon, checked Gaza City’s treasury with a satisfied smile, and finally managed to log out for a short break. When he logged back in after a quick nap in the real world, a new day was dawning in Middle Earth.

“Welcome back, lord.”

“Yes. I have places to visit today, so if there’s nothing urgent, just pile up the documents.”

“Understood.”

“I’ll be back soon.”

Leeha left Gaza City’s inner castle with light steps, smiling and nodding to all NPCs who bowed to him due to his 『Dignity』 buff. However, when he arrived at a certain location, the smile vanished from his face.

‘I wonder how it will be…’

One of his top priorities upon returning to the old continent. Leeha was standing in front of the Holy Grill Gaza City branch.


“Busy this early?”

“Of course. Don’t you know I’m still here instead of the capital?”

Lu hadn’t returned to the capital. The Holy Grill branch in Gaza City, boasting the highest sales among its branches, both surprised and saddened Leeha.

“Hmm… I shouldn’t have given that tax benefit…”

“Surely our Lord wouldn’t go back on his word?”

“Of course not. Haha… Oh, then at the capital right now-”

“My sister is there. Castle Candle branch is overseen by Mifgar-ssi.”

“Mifgar-ssi, the Giant Chef?!”

“You know him?”

More than just knowing him. He had been thoroughly trained in cooking under him.

‘Well, it really paid off in the new continent.’

The main reason he could befriend the primitive Paleos was his cooking skills.

Leeha nodded, recalling Lu in the capital branch, who was simultaneously intimidating and approachable.

‘An NPC with such contrasting characteristics is in the capital, hmm. She’ll certainly handle the tasks of the information guild’s leader.’

Lu had initially played a role in selecting promising users from beginner villages, as Ju once said. It wasn’t an exaggeration to consider Lu, not Ju in the capital, as the one overseeing Fibiel’s information guild.

Leeha briefly chatted with Ju before bringing up the main topic.

“Madam, how far did you get with the investigation I asked for?”

“Huh? Your request?”

“You didn’t do it at all?”

“Ho ho, just kidding. Did you think I’d forget our Lord’s request? Let me see, the documents are here…”

Leeha’s heart chilled for a moment at Ju’s joke. Whether due to the full opening of the new continent or Phase 3, NPCs seemed to have slightly changed AI, making them more unpredictable.

‘Like Paytor. Hmm.’

Leeha waited, crossing his arms and looking annoyed. Ju presented him with several screenshots that looked like candid photos.

“What’s this?”

Rustle… Rustle… Rustle.

He quickly flipped through the photos. Three individuals appeared in the photos, all recognizable to Leeha.

“Yes, our information guild remembers these people. To investigate the Shinob-gumi, we had to follow their tracks.”

“Sasuke, matsushige, mamehana.”

Photos of these three members of the Shinobigumi were spread across various shots, with Sasuke appearing the most.

“It was so hard to track that black-clad guy. Really, if not for the tax benefits, I would’ve wanted to decline the request.”

“So, did you find out anything else?”

“We marked their meeting points and several other locations, but… we couldn’t find their higher-ups. I’m sorry.”

“Ah..”

Not finding the head of the Shinobigumi wasn’t surprising. Who was the top player of user information organizations? Chiyou, who had been with Leeha for over 120 days during the voyage. The old continent’s NPC information guild had no way to uncover her, no matter how hard they tried.

“Give us a little more time, we’re still tracking them. We might have something soon-”

“Wait. This map – it’s tracking Sasuke’s movements, right?”

“-Uh? Yes, that’s right.”

Leeha interrupted Ju, focusing on the map. Sasuke’s movements across various continents, including Fibiel and Minis, were clearly documented.

‘Matsushige and Mamehana are still intermediates. It’s natural for them, not yet reaching level 150, to be limited to Fibiel.’

But Sasuke was different. The precise records from the NPC information guild revealed when and where he entered cities and his subsequent movements, puzzling Leeha.

‘Why did he visit Minis City so often?’

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 486

				
 Sasuke’s hunting grounds were scattered across various continents. Visiting towns en route to hunting grounds in the Shazrashian Federation or forts beyond the Sentinel Mountains in Fibiel made sense. But Minis? Despite no suitable hunting spots nearby for Sasuke, there was a notable trend of him frequenting major cities in Minis.

‘Business or – no, why wander from city to city if it’s just for the auction house?’

Leeha asked Ju, “Could he be affiliated with Minis? Like a defector or something…?”

“Hmm? No, that’s unlikely.”

“Right? Sasuke is affiliated with Fibiel, isn’t he?”

“Of course. We definitely checked that.”

Then why frequent Minis so often? An idea crossed Leeha’s mind, still unformed. No need to pinpoint it. But it was strange that he hadn’t thought of this before.

‘The Shinobigumi is an organization. They need a base.’

Although fluid, they’re still ‘users’, and thus must belong to a nation! Leeha combined this with Sasuke’s movements. The conclusion came easily.

“The Shinobigumi is affiliated with Minis. One of these cities must have their base.”

Mamehana and Matsushige’s roles were just ‘spies.’ The same for Sasuke. Scattered across various cities, regardless of the nation, to gather information. All of this was controlled by a head somewhere, a vague thought Leeha could now dismiss. If the Shinobigumi belonged to Minis, it also unraveled the secret of the information network connected during the national war. No need to connect networks, as the Shinobigumi already had one.

“Madam!”

“Ai, you scared me. Why yell like-”

“Those cities, do they share any common establishments? Can you check?”

“Of course. I can tell you right now.”

“List them, quickly.”

Ju, half-admiring, half-expecting something from Leeha, quickly organized the data.

“Three, three percent tax benefit extension for one month, deal?!”

A look of expectation.

No matter how much Leeha governs the city, there’s no such thing as a free lunch for NPCs. Madam Joo smiled pleasantly and quickly organized the documents, handing them over to Leeha.


“Here. Buildings in these cities, focusing on shops and facilities. I’ve narrowed it down to these eight cities. Is this okay?”

“Yes, good.”

Leeha took the data, scanning through: weapon shops, armor shops, repair blacksmiths, clothing stores…

A detail caught his eye.

“High-class restaurant?”

Not a fairy, but a high-class restaurant or tavern. Ju nodded at Leeha’s mumbling.

“Yes, like the one in ‘our’ city.”

Leeha ignored Ju’s emphasis on ‘our’, fixated on a bigger question.

“Who runs the restuarant? Who’s in this city? Who’s been stinking up the place?”

“Chiyou!”

“Yes, Chiyou’s restaurant.”

Ju couldn’t finish as Leeha’s eyes gleamed with revelation.

“Ju, I’ll do my own research, but…”

Leeha checked Black Bass’s magazine in his bag. He needed to visit Bottleneck, to pay back what had accumulated.

“Prioritize Chiyou’s location in your investigation. Contact me immediately upon finding her.”

“…Yes, okay.”

Leeha didn’t rage, curse, or yell. No need. But quiet flames are the most fearsome. This time, Ju didn’t ask for any favors. Leeha left Sacred Grill without a word.

‘Chiyou might not have returned from the new continent yet. And tracking a tank’s location, even for Sacred Grill, takes time.’

Leeha knew it required time, so he wouldn’t wait idly, especially with many changes since the new continent voyage.

‘I can’t ask for help. This is strictly a personal vendetta. But I can ask questions.’


In some unknown location in the new continent, just spotting Chiyou would be enough. That was sufficient for Leeha. His steps were swift and stern. Although NPCs greeted their lord along the way, Leeha seemed oblivious to their words. While walking, Leeha endlessly scribbled on a note. His steps, hand movements, and thoughts were all independent. At times like these, his multitasking abilities were not inferior to Ram Hwayeon’s.

‘No evidence.’

Was Chiyou the head of the Shinobigumi? Was it certain? No clear answer came. It was all circumstantial evidence.

‘But it doesn’t matter.’

Physical evidence would be impossible to obtain. The meticulous individuals of 『Shinobigumi』 didn’t even formally create a guild under that name. They wouldn’t have left any physical evidence. Leeha knew this.

With the situation having progressed this far, it wasn’t about the existence of evidence anymore.

‘I’ll blow her head off first, then look for evidence.’

It won’t be easy. Leeha had fought rankers several times. But he couldn’t directly compare those experiences to now. During his battle with Faust, he had Alexander and the Demon King’s minion subjugation squad with him. What about when battling Petyr?

Ram Hwayeon, Shin Nara, Bobae, and others were all there. Leeha’s role was merely delivering the final blow.

The same with the battle against Igor. Although he called his soulmate, a child, Igor was with the Czar Guild, so Leeha had to make an emergency escape to where Kidd and Luger were.

Those were mostly victories, but strictly speaking, they were achieved with the help of comrades.

‘Finally, a proper PvP with a ranker.’

It won’t be easy, especially after having observed each other sufficiently during the new continent expedition.

‘But she must have known about me first.’

The few skills that Chiyou couldn’t hide and had to show were already pressuring Leeha. Could he really catch her? The calm and deep anger that simmered as he left Sacred Grill was now turning into a peculiar nervousness and excitement.

“Whoa! Ha, Leeha?!”

“Oh, Bottleneck-ssi! You were here? Wow, who are all these people?”

Leeha’s stride halted abruptly at the sound. He found himself looking at Bottleneck’s bustling forge. Not only the Beard Brothers but other dwarves were busily catering to humans – whether they were users or NPCs, Leeha couldn’t tell.

Bottleneck, in the middle of a conversation, hurriedly approached Leeha.

“If you’re here, you should say something, man!”


“Ouch! Don’t hit me, no, who hits their landlord like that?”

Then Bottleneck playfully struck Leeha’s thigh a couple of times. It was the dwarves’ unique way of showing affection, something Leeha knew well.

“What? A tenant?”

“Giggle, just kidding. You’ve been really popular lately, right? There are so many people now! Our ‘Engineering Chief’.”

“Ahem, well, of course! It was just that our position in Hell’s Anvil wasn’t great. Now that I have my own forge, it’s obvious that people would flock here!”

Bottleneck proudly puffed up his chest. Leeha already knew about his success through various reports in the lord’s office, but seeing it in person was a different experience.

“As expected, Bottleneck-ssi! Impressive!”

Rather than saying, ‘I scouted well’, Leeha praised Bottleneck, showing another level of his social skills had improved.

Leeha continued to boost Bottleneck’s morale, to the point that it might have strained his neck. He mentioned how Bottleneck’s ammunition had been helpful during their voyage to the new continent and that the performance of the electric shocker definitely deserved recognition. Leeha didn’t mention his struggles in the sea, as there was no need.

“Ha, of course! Just tell me what you need! I am the top blacksmith and the Engineering Chief of Gaza City!”

“Okay, I’ll just tell you then. I have a list of items I need.”

“Uh?”

Leeha handed Bottleneck a note and quickly entered the forge. He saw several types of ammunition already prepared. Perhaps Kidd and Luger had already been there, as he noticed their bullet piles disheveled.

“Aha, the bullets are ready. I’ll take these for now! Please prepare the rest as soon as possible, I’ll be back the day after tomorrow.”

“What, wait, Leeha! How am I supposed to…”

“Since you’re the best blacksmith, you’ll figure it out. Fighting!”

Leeha clenched his fist in encouragement, which seemed terrifyingly annoying to Bottleneck. Watching the dwarf NPC’s contorted expression, Leeha smiled wryly and left. The sadness of a tenant (?) unable to say much to their ‘lord’ was evident.

‘Okay, got the bullets and requested item production.’

His upcoming confrontation with Chiyou was not a simple sniping. It wasn’t about predicting her location and waiting aimlessly to pull the trigger, nor was it like the Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh sniping where he lured her into a favorable position before firing.

Leeha clearly defined the nature of this battle. In some ways, it would be the most unfamiliar type of combat for him.

‘This time, it’s hunting. This time, I’m not a sniper, but a hunter.’

Leeha loaded a newly filled magazine into Black Bass. Click-! With a heavy sound of connection, he had to prepare for this 『hunt』.

He had already sent whispers to all users whose location showed ‘new continent’, casually, as if he was just passing time. However, he had to secure information about Chiyou.

“If you don’t know now, just contact me later if you happen to see her in the new continent, or if you hear anything about her.”

He casually placed the request, subtly hinting at his intentions. After all, even if he knew Chiyou’s location right away, he was not ready yet.

“I need to hit level 200 first to make it interesting to face Chiyou.”

Leeha checked his level and searched for a hunting ground. There were plenty of prey he could practice on before facing Chiyou. Shwoooosh-! A fleeting purple light twinkled briefly in Gaza City.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 487

				
 “Guardians are down! Be careful not to attract additional aggro!”

“The casting of ‘Apostle’ should be almost complete! Get ready with the magic defense buffs!”

“Casting now, 『Magic Chain Armor』.”

A group of party members were busily engaged in hunting.

They were in one of the famous hunting grounds frequented by high-level players in Fibiel, colloquially known as ‘Ruins’. The place was notorious for its strong monsters, requiring a minimum party level of around 200. However, the monsters’ roles were distinctly divided like players, which actually made hunting easier, according to popular opinion.

Of course, this didn’t apply to the party currently hunting.

“Ah, this is crazy. Three more ‘Crushers’ spawned? How long will it take to handle two Guardians?”

“My skills are still on cooldown, so what now? It’s just the beginning. Let’s focus on defeating these first.”

A ranged damage dealer asked anxiously, but the tank calmly raised his shield to block attacks and responded. He was well aware that the situation was anything but relaxed. But as a tank, his duty was to tackle tasks methodically, unlike a ranged damage dealer who has to think broadly and diversely.

“Ever since the new continent opened, our hunting ground has been deserted. If we draw the aggro of those Crushers, we’ll be in trouble.”

“I know, right? There used to be a lot of people from Byulcho guild around here. It was tough competing for monsters, but I prefer that to now. We can’t even do a proper mob hunt…”

“Don’t worry about those who aren’t here! Let’s finish this off first— Ouch! Let’s wrap this up!”

A monster made of blue-tinged bones was being confronted. Despite their monstrous appearance, their weapons were intimidating. A close-range damage dealer swung at a Ruin’s Guardian’s neck bone with a crushing blow.

Kaaang-!

A sound like metal clashing echoed throughout the Ruins, loud enough to be heard from a considerable distance.

“Kiki-git… Kikit?”

“Kik- Ki…”

Simultaneously, three huge Crushers wielding giant swords turned their heads. Although they lacked eyes, the players knew exactly where their ‘gaze’ was directed.

“Oh no.”

“The Crushers have aggroed us! Let’s try to retreat, and if that doesn’t work, use a return scroll to regroup—”


TuquaAAAAAAAAANG———–

“—What?! What was that?!”

“A gun? It came from over there?”

TuquaAAAAAAAAANG———–

“No, it’s from this side! There are two of them, I think.”

“What kind of musket makes that noise?”

TuquaAAAAAAAAANG———–

— PAK!

“No, it’s definitely from that side! Look, something just landed on the ground!”

Human instincts were inescapable. In Middle Earth, unfamiliar with such thunderous noise and unable to identify its source, the players instinctively retreated from the direction of the sound. That was exactly their problem.

Which way should they go? One of the sound sources was definitely elsewhere. The direction and angle of the noise were distinctly different from each other.

“First, let’s avoid the Crushers’ aggro and then—”

“—No need for that anymore.”

The party members looked at the Crushers with confused eyes. It was now somewhat embarrassing to even call them Crushers. The remains of the Crushers were scattered on the ground, a mess of pale bone fragments.

“And why is the Apostle we were targeting dead?”

“—Yeah. I saw something fly and hit the ground just now. Was that an effect of the Apostle’s death?”

Another bewildering aspect was evident. The most important and challenging magical monster in the ‘Ruins’, which the party had aggroed, was also dead.

“Gworoosh…”

“What’s this? Only two guardians left suddenly? What’s going on?”

“…Let’s just finish off these remaining monsters. Whoever did this might come for looting, even if we don’t know who they are.”


The party members began to engage the remaining monsters with a sense of unease. However, even after they had dealt with the two guardians of the ruins, there was no sign of any other players. The person who had caused this confusion among these Level 200+ players was, of course, Leeha.

Given the declining number of Musketeer job users among high-level players, it was natural that they would be unfamiliar with the sound of a gun. But the one who had startled them was not satisfied with the outcome.

“I’m late, still not as good as I want it to be. I’m getting more familiar with it, but it’s not coming out exactly as I want.” 『Kyuuu, Kyuukyuu!』

“I did well?”

『Kyuu, Kyuuu.』

『Mong Mong Mong Mong…』

Blaugrunn nodded vigorously, and even Jellypong, uninvited, popped out of Leeha’s chest and nodded.

“Thanks. But I still have a long way to go…”

Leeha chuckled lightly, yet he was not fully satisfied with his performance.

“Is it really impossible to execute it? But if I’m not this proficient, it’ll be even harder to devise another strategy.”

Leeha chose Fibiel’s ‘Ruins’ as his hunting ground based on Kijung’s advice. He had been leveling up here for the past ten days since leaving Gaza City, hunting every monster in the area and trying to diversify his hunting patterns.

“Let’s see, I’ve gained three levels… no, wait, it’s three. Character window!”

Name: Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 198 (3%)

Title: Fearless / Achievements:

124

HP: 6,440(4,508)

MP: 1,590

Stats: Strength 551 (+466)

Agility 3,258(+1,114)


Intelligence 190(+139)

Endurance 228(+135)

Spirit 65(+55)

Remaining stat points: 5

He had reached level 198 and even gained 3% experience without realizing it, so focused was he on mastering a ‘new pattern.’

‘Min, I’ve surpassed 3,200 agility, and I’ve got more than 120 achievements. It’s noteworthy that my strength has increased tremendously due to the paleos being mainly physical types.’

He invested all 5 stat points into agility, reviewing his condition.

Even with the agility achievements gained from Pyro, reaching his initial target of 『Agility 3,333』 was still out of reach.

‘But given the huge number, it looked easy to achieve. How many did I need from 3,000 to 3,333? Right, 333 stat points. Damn, I thought too easily. If I go by levels alone… Wow, I need 67 levels.’

He realized the difficulty of gaining an additional 300 stat points in Middle Earth. Already possessing monstrous stats and hunting speed, Leeha couldn’t be satisfied.

‘I can’t predict how the battle with Chiyou will unfold, so I have to keep leveling up.’

He wondered if it would simply be a sniping battle. The chances were low. Not knowing what other methods Chiyou might use, he was preparing for various contingencies.

‘Or maybe I should break Black Bass’s quest… But that’s not easy either…’

『Black Bass’s Seal-5』

Objective: Kill a level 250+ monster from a distance of over 3,500m in one shot (0/1)

A staggering distance of 3,500 meters. It would require all of Leeha’s resources to barely make it possible, and the target was a level 250+ monster.

“Life is truly tough, so tough. Now, how to…”

『Kyu-kyu!』

Leeha, while seemingly complaining, was interrupted by Blaugrunn, who sharply tugged his hair.

“Ouch!? Why- ah, a monster?”

『Kyuuu, Kyuuuu.』

As Leeha lifted his head, blaugrun pointed towards the ruins. There stood the Apostle of the Ruins, a miniboss-level monster, wielding a bone staff and wearing a hood. Despite being a skeleton-like monster with a human shape and not particularly large, it was a challenging and annoying opponent for the players due to its powerful area-of-effect magic.

“That Apostle of the Ruins… its level is around 215 to 220. But even if a field boss appearing here meets the level 250 requirement for the quest, it’s an impossible task.”

Even if a level 250+ field boss appeared, it would be a futile effort for Leeha’s current objective. He wouldn’t be able to complete the Black Bass quest by defeating it.

『Mong, mong.』

Listening to Blaugrunn’s snorting, Leeha adjusted his aim.

“I have indeed grown.”

『Kyu?』

“I’m more comfortable with this distance now. Much more than when I was in the military.”

A gentle breeze blew. Even without the Harpy’s hat, it wouldn’t significantly affect the trajectory.

“Let’s try it – right in the middle of the forehead.”

Thwoom-

The shot echoed, and almost immediately, the Apostle’s robe lay sprawled on the ground.

“This really is an equal game, don’t you think?”

『Kyu?』

“Whether it’s the Ruins’ miniboss, a passing fox, or the Candle Castle’s eagle… it all goes down with one shot to the head. Except dragons, of course.”

『Kyu, Kyu, Kyu-woo?』

Blaugrunn looked puzzled as if to say, “Is that really equality?”

Despite the challenges with the Black Bass quest, Leeha found some comfort in his unchanging ‘strength’.

After eating, feeding others, and shooting every visible monster, Leeha’s routine at this hunting spot was more like a literal camping trip – eating, drinking, lounging, and not caring for looting. He was simply waiting for a response, and after about three days, he finally got a piece of good news.

『You have leveled up.』

“Nice! Now I’m 199-”

-Leeha? Chiyou just arrived at the Fibiel Palace.

“-Achieved. What? The Fibiel Palace? How did Chiyou-”

『Kyu?』

“Oh, no, I wasn’t talking to you, blaugrun-ssi. It was a whisper.”

Leeha awkwardly responded to the confused Blaugrunn and then quickly replied to the whisper.

(To be continued…)
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 Swoooosh…!

Leeha immediately moved to Fibiel’s capital, aelstock. Since he had saved the location of the crystal ball near the warp gate, he had to walk a bit further to the royal palace.

‘Chiyou is affiliated with Minis. Regardless, in a situation like this, it’s not a problem to wander around a city in another country. It’s the same as me being able to wander around a city in Minis. But…’

The royal palace is a different story. Leeha regretted underestimating Chiyou without realizing it. As a ranker of Chiyou’s caliber, if she really belonged to a guild that handles information, and if she was operating high-end taverns and gourmet restaurants in the major cities of Minis, it wouldn’t be strange.

‘There must be an enormous amount of contribution to Minis. Not to mention the continental reputation.’

Of course, it wasn’t long since he learned about her various ‘foundations’ in the major cities of Minis, but it was a level he could have predicted! Assuming that someone of her caliber would only act covertly was actually a mistake. In a situation where there’s nothing to hide, at least on the surface, Chiyou could, contrary to Leeha’s expectations, roam around proudly in the light.

“Ha Leeha-nim.”

“What! Who, who are you?”

It was then that someone approached Leeha as he walked down the street. Even Leeha, who usually remembered faces well, did not recognize this person.

“Here.”

“What is this- Hey, hey there!” Swoosh. The person handed something to Leeha and immediately turned and disappeared. It was a small piece of paper.

“…What’s this?”

『Kyuuu?』

Leeha, along with Blaugrunn, tilted his head and unfolded the note given by the man.

『If you received this note, you must be in the capital. Chiyou has headed to Fibiel’s royal palace as a special envoy from Minis. Hurry and follow her before it’s too late. This is about diplomatic coordination to prevent territorial disputes in the New Continent.』

“Ah?!”

Was this seen through Madame Ju via Lu? Anyway, Leeha just learned that the man was one of the NPCs belonging to the Holy Grill, an intelligence guild. He also unexpectedly learned the reason for Chiyou’s visit to Fibiel’s royal palace, which even Shin Nara didn’t know yet.

‘Oh! So that’s why- that’s why she came! Just as Ram Hwayeon-ssi said…!’

Fibiel was planning to soon send personnel of royal palace caliber to the New Continent.

How did Ram Hwayeon know this? Even if she had connections at the palace, for a player who was not a member of the expedition to the New Continent to know this, it must have been sufficiently discussed. Naturally, minis and Kraven would not have just sat idly by. There was nothing strange about them moving first.


『Kyuu, Kyuu』

“Yes, we need to hurry.”

When the grand Fibiel royal palace began to loom before him, Leeha increased his speed. Upon entering the royal palace, he was greeted by Shin Nara.

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Ah, Nara-ssi.”

“Hurry, hurry! She’s still waiting to enter the audience chamber, but we don’t know what will be discussed!”

Shin Nara, unaware of Chiyou’s purpose, urged Leeha. But in fact, Leeha, who had arrived late, already had that information. Shin Nara linked her arms with him and walked briskly. Listening to the clanking of his plate boots, Leeha broached the subject of Chiyou’s purpose. Upon hearing about the reason for Minis sending a special envoy,

Shin Nara looked quite surprised.

“We haven’t even proceeded to that level in our discussions yet. Minis moved so quickly? Territorial issues regarding the New Continent are extremely sensitive.”

“Yes, that’s right. No, that’s why Chiyou moved.

“Eh?”

Chiyou is the leader of Shinobigumi. The person leading the largest intelligence guild among players is Chiyou. Leeha didn’t answer Shin Nara’s question. But his eyes were shining. Shin Nara, looking at Leeha’s face, suddenly turned her head away. Thinking that Leeha looked ‘beautiful’ was something Shin Nara considered crazy. Yet, she couldn’t help but be drawn to him! She hurriedly changed the subject.

“Oh, did you complete the quest at the Papacy? What reward did you receive?”

Hearing her somewhat excited voice, Leeha had a stunned expression.

When Leeha didn’t respond, Shin Nara turned her head back to him. After seeing his expression, she looked even more surprised.

“Leeha-ssi… Don’t tell me…”

“Right… I forgot about the quest…”

“Really crazy- no, sorry. But Leeha-ssi?!”

Leeha reproached himself without Shin Nara needing to call him crazy. Could he really be losing his mind? He had forgotten about the reward from the Papacy! The quest for the New Continent expedition was ultimately given by the Pope of Ezwen.

Meaning, to receive the quest completion reward, he should have returned to Ezwen!


‘I should have seen the alert, and it must have been showing continuously in the quest window to check the reward…’

Shin Nara remembered when she completed it.

It’s not something you can forget even if you want to. Unless he didn’t log into Middle Earth at all, it was incredible for a heavy player like Leeha to forget something like that.

‘It’s not just a simple reward; how could I forget a quest completion reward that will go down in the history of Middle Earth?’

‘Crazy. No wonder something felt missing! How foolish!’

Leeha had his own reasons. In the New Continent, he was busy securing advantages, and back in the Old Continent, he was immersed in Gaza City’s business and Chiyou’s affairs. He had no time to spare for other matters – even though this was a matter too big to be called ‘other.’

“That… I was a bit busy…”

“Oh, really… To be so busy that you forget about a quest reward… In a way, that’s quite impressive.”

It meant his concentration was strong when he was focused on one thing, but at this moment, even Leeha had no excuse. Shin Nara looked at him not with pity or strangeness, but with pure ‘surprise’ in her eyes. Leeha’s non-excuse didn’t change her expression. A true gamer would have taken care of the quest completion reward first, setting aside everything else. To her, Leeha seemed to be more than a gamer, almost like a ‘resident’ of Middle Earth.

‘Well, that aspect is also-‘

“Dame Shin. What brings you here?”

“Oh! Ah, yes, there- that-”

Was it Leeha’s charm that was making Shin Nara’s heart flutter, she wondered, as they reached their destination.

Shin Nara quickly unlinked her arm from Leeha’s and composed herself.

“Thank you for your hard work. Are the envoys from Minis…”

“They just entered. His Majesty the King will meet them personally-”

“Oh no! Can we enter too?”

“Please wait a moment.”

The guard near the reception room exchanged glances between Leeha and Shin Nara and sent a message somewhere. Shin Nara of the Sacred Knights, and Leeha, not only with a high contribution to Fibiel but also as a lord of a city in Fibiel, were almost impossible to be ignored in the royal palace.

“Permission granted. This way.”


Soon after, a royal guard NPC led them. Following the splendid corridors of the Fibiel royal palace that the Minis’ envoys had passed through, Leeha and Shin Nara stopped in front of the king’s audience chamber. The signal was simple. When the door opened a moment later, Leeha had to exert considerable control over his patience.

“My, Leeha-ssi is here too?”

Chiyou was smiling and waving her hand with an amused expression.

‘I mustn’t show it. I can’t reveal even a bit of my heart.’

Leeha lightly ignored Chiyou and greeted the king and the meritorious NPCs of Fibiel next to him. One was the guard captain he had seen before. And another NPC standing beside him caught Leeha’s attention.

“Oh. Dame Shin and Musketeer-”

“I am Ha Leeha, lotzak-nim.”

Chief Mage Rotzak was also there. Leeha felt like he had encountered a fox and a hyena in the same room. The king of Fibiel looked tired. After greeting Shin Nara and Leeha, he immediately asked Minis’ envoys again.

“So… you suggest dividing the sectors in advance and then moving in?”

“That’s right, Your Majesty. As you know, if powerful Fibiel and Minis, which may not match Fibiel but still a strong nation, were to oppose each other again, it wouldn’t just disturb the peace of this continent but also leave us unprepared for the upcoming threats in the New Continent.”

As Minis’ envoy finished speaking, Chiyou whispered something in his ear.

As she stepped back, the Minis’ envoy spoke again.

“Therefore, before a full-scale exploration of the New Continent, it seems appropriate to determine how much land each country will manage based on the information currently available. If we go to the New Continent and conduct a thorough investigation, there’s a possibility of an ‘unfortunate situation’ arising as each strives for better land.”

“… Sigh… I understand what you’re saying.”

The king of Fibiel nodded his head. Leeha and Shin Nara arrived late, but their timing was perfect. They had just finished the unnecessary preamble and were discussing the main point. Leeha, already aware of the general situation, could immediately understand the conversation.

‘Indeed… They want to drive stakes in advance to prevent coveting more land in the New Continent.’

Once on the New Continent, everyone will want better land. Therefore, before sending official envoys, they propose to decide how much land and which areas each country affiliated with the New Continent expedition will govern based on the information brought by the expedition members…

‘If compared, it’s like a ‘random box’ from a national perspective.’

It’s the New Continent, already frequented and filled with information by players, apart from the official expedition members. But in the current situation, none of it can be ‘official record’ or ‘public data.’

Thus, deciding sectors without dispatching an investigation team, as Minis suggests, is likely to be a gamble. There’s a chance of acquiring a fertile area rich in resources, but also the risk of being responsible for an area full of aggressive and hostile paleo monsters. At first glance, it might seem like an equal opportunity, but Leeha firmly shook his head.

This proposal would have been acceptable if it came from the king of Minis or the Pope. But who is present here now?

‘This idea likely originated from Chiyou.’

It’s also possible that she already had a considerable amount of information about the New Continent’s land. The time frame would have been too short for Chiyou to investigate alone. But who is she? If she utilized Shinobigumi?

Even though poor players can’t afford to use the warp gate to the New Continent, shinobigumi’s financial power would have made it no problem.

In this era of upheaval, even the smallest piece of information about the New Continent can be worth a fortune.

“We have already discussed this to some extent with Kraven. If powerful Fibiel agrees, we will take responsibility for convincing Shazrashian and reporting to Ezwen.”

Minis’ envoy bowed respectfully. While his words showed immense respect for Fibiel, the facial muscles of the guard captain standing behind Fibiel’s king were trembling.

“How dare you! Is Minis trying to threaten our nation now?! Using terms like ‘powerful nation’ to deceive His Majesty, if that’s your intention, I’ll cut off your heads right now!”

“Please don’t think that way. We have no such intentions.”

“Lies! Your attitude shows that Minis believes it has more power than our nation! Your demeanor and the way you’re dictating terms! Do you think we don’t understand what that means? You-”

“Enough, Guard Captain. We’re in the royal court.”

“…”

Would the guard captain really have drawn his sword if Rotzak had not intervened? Yet, this exaggerated action indicated that the king had likely permitted it, something both Leeha and Shin Nara could discern. Though he was somewhat excitable, speaking out of turn in front of the king was a crime, and the captain would not have been unaware of that.

‘The king is also angry. He doesn’t like it.’

Leeha looked uncomfortably back and forth between the guard captain and Minis’ envoy. Both Chiyou and the envoy were smiling faintly.

‘How far, what plan are you concocting now, Chiyou? Whether we accept or not, is it all in your hands?’

Meeting Chiyou for the first time since the provisional conclusion that she was the head of Shinobigumi, Leeha felt anew how frightening she was. The thought that each of her actions and words, which he had simply found annoying or unlucky, could all be part of a calculated plan sent chills down his spine.

“We understand Minis’ proposal.”

“Thank you, Your Majesty. We request a response within a timely manner, preferably within ten days.”

“How dare you again! Imposing a deadline on His Majesty, this insolent attitude needs to be corrected immediately-”

“Enough.”

“… Yes, Your Majesty.”

The guard captain, once again on the verge of an outburst, was directly calmed by the king. The king must have been displeased as well. His tired expression had turned sharp. The first diplomatic situation between nations since the discovery of the New Continent was far from peaceful.

(To be continued…)
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 The Minis’ envoy quietly exited the audience chamber, with Chiyou, exhibiting a low profile, backing out as well. After they left, and other meritorious NPCs entered the audience chamber, the king spoke again. There was no need for further explanation to the other NPCs.

“What do you think?”

“That proposal isn’t even worth considering, Your Majesty! How dare those people-”

“Calm down, Guard Captain. But, since they revealed that ‘Fox of the Prairie’ would govern the Minis-controlled territory in the New Continent, it’s clear it’s not a false proposal.”

“That’s right. The fact that they mentioned convincing Shazrashian and the Ezwen Papacy isn’t something to be taken lightly in such a setting. How dare they issue such a guarantee on such a grave matter?”

“We need to decide quickly as well. Our nation also has expedition members in the New Continent, including Dame Shin here! We should convene them immediately to determine the most advantageous areas.”

The meritorious NPCs whispered their opinions to each other.

However, none of it seemed to matter to the king. It was one of Leeha’s disliked NPCs who cautiously spoke up.

“We need to discern their true intentions more than the superficial proposal, Your Majesty.”

It was Rotzak who showed his sharpness in response to the king’s question. During his speech, his hand shimmered with blue light, and ice crystals formed on the agitated guard captain’s forehead.

‘Not only casting but using skills, or rather magic, without even looking at the target… Perhaps Ram Hwajung-ssi could do that too.’

Despite his cunning fox-like demeanor, his skills were among the top users, if not surpassing them.

“What do you think, lotzak?”

“At least, we should not be led by their proposal.”

“Led by them?”

“Yes. Extracting information from the New Continent expedition members to choose the best lands is precisely what Minis is aiming for. We should not accept their proposal.”

“But what other option do we have? The proposal has been made, and the fact that it has reached me means it will soon spread throughout the continent.”

The king furrowed his brows. He must have already considered not accepting the proposal, but a valid reason and solution were needed.

Shin Nara had been quietly observing the situation.

Leeha, too, was intently listening to the emergency meeting, and for a brief moment, his eyes met Rotzak’s. Rotzak immediately refocused his gaze on the king and spoke again.


“We need to buy time, at least until we can understand Minis’ true intentions.”

“But how can we buy time? Do you suggest killing the envoy? That would immediately cast suspicion on us.”

The king of Fibiel, like anyone else, did not want to concede the lands of the New Continent. Shin Nara realized that the king’s words were his ‘true feelings.’

‘At least in terms of greed… there’s no NPC to compare. Of course, he’s not without that capability. The fact that he’s even considering assassination implies that the king NPC has the political ability to manipulate even Rotzak freely…’

But was Rotzak really being played by the king? Shin Nara felt the need to reconsider this point.

Rotzak was indeed himself.

“Leave the envoy be. After all, the envoy is nothing but a puppet.”

“What do you mean?”

“As you might have noticed, Your Majesty, the woman beside the envoy… 

‘Chiyou’ from Minis is speculated to be the originator of this plan. There have been reports of her being seen beside Minis’ commander-in-chief during the national campaign.”

Hearing Chiyou’s name from Rotzak, Leeha also tensed up.

Even the briefly mentioned statement was a clue Leeha couldn’t overlook. A piece of evidence for Leeha to judge Chiyou! A hint that could turn his provisional conclusion into a fact.

‘Beside the Fox of the Prairie? Then, Chiyou is indeed handling information-’

“So? What’s the conclusion?”

“The recently departed envoy is a noble of Minis. However, Chiyou is a civilian, without any official position. And if she is a civilian… especially one like her, a professional dancer, then personal grudges can be quite complex.”

Leeha was still focused on the clue thrown by Rotzak and hadn’t caught the recent statement. Rotzak, sensing the king’s impatience, turned around, his gaze directly on Leeha.

“To fulfill the plan, we simply eliminate the ‘brain’ behind it. There’s a chance another person with her capabilities might appear, but if she is assassinated, minis will likely request an extension to the ‘ten-day deadline’ they proposed to His Majesty.”

Suddenly, a hologram window appeared before Leeha, who was lost in thought.

『This matter is unknown to our Fibiel.』

Description: “However, it mustn’t be carried out officially by an agent of the state. Someone who can work for Fibiel, who can sacrifice for a noble cause, possessing both courage and skill, could sufficiently handle this task. Even if discovered by Minis’ agents, they could sacrifice themselves under the guise of a ‘personal grudge’.”


Rotzak was pushing a state’s responsibility and task onto an individual.

If successfully completed in secrecy, you could owe a national-level debt to the Kingdom of Fibiel!

But failure would make you a public enemy, rejected not only by Minis but also by Fibiel.

Task: Assassinate Minis player 『Chiyou』 at least once within 7 days

Reward: Title – Shadow Hitman

Failure conditions: Reporting to Minis Royal Palace by the assassination target

Penalty for Failure: Minis Royal Relationship -100%, Fibiel Royal Relationship -50%, sacred Knights Relationship -50%, Fibiel National Contribution -2,000, lope Continent Common Fame -4,000

Limited-time Achievement – Public Enemy disrupting the peace of the New Continent (Attackable by all players and NPCs of Fibiel and Minis)

Will you accept?

“Huh?”

“What is it, Leeha-ssi?”

“No, it’s just—”

Why had this quest request window suddenly appeared? As Leeha read the content in shock, he had no room to answer Shin Nara’s question.

“Is there someone who can undertake such a task? Someone not holding an official position in Fibiel, with a personal grudge against that dancer…”

“Yes, Your Majesty. There is someone who meets all the criteria.”

“And who might that be?”

“Right here, Your Majesty.”

Rotzak didn’t need to point out Leeha specifically; the king’s eyes were already on him.

“I see. Gaza City is technically within Minis’ border… A personal grudge from there?”

“Yes, Your Majesty. Leeha has always worked diligently for our palace. I recognize his willingness to exert himself again for the royal family.”


Rotzak bowed to the king, implying this was the best course of action. But for Leeha, this was an utterly absurd situation.

‘This crazy Rotzak—what is he suggesting? Suddenly, what is all this…’

The implications were clear.

‘Being sacrificed under the guise of a personal grudge’, ‘pushing responsibility onto an individual’, and the nuance of becoming a ‘public enemy’ in case of failure!

‘They’re trying to use me as a scapegoat! If I succeed, good for them; if I fail, they can just discard me?!’

Rotzak was turning everything upside down for Leeha.

Boosting his own reputation with a clever idea, while removing the thorn in his side, Leeha!

Truly, the cunning of a politician!

As Leeha stood with his mouth agape, the king already nodded in approval, smiling subtly.

Confronted with the king’s expectation of acceptance, and with Rotzak not even looking at him, Leeha knew he had to refuse. Refusing would mean a drop in the royal relationship, but it was a necessary choice. Accepting would mean getting involved in a deal with no benefits.

The potential penalties of failure were daunting, from the drop in relationships to the public enemy status.

However, the reward was just a title. Titles in the game only apply one effect at a time, and Leeha already had a beneficial title, “Fearless”, which gave him extra attack power against higher-level opponents. Another title held little appeal.

“Your Majesty, but I-”

“Can you take this on, Leeha? I understand it’s difficult. But once again, I ask this of you, a member of the Musketeers and a recipient of our Medal of Honor.”

Leeha should have refused, and he was about to, until the king mentioned the Medal of Honor – an A+ level achievement. Leeha had previously sought achievements around this level, but the Medal of Honor’s effect was not just another high-level achievement. It was equivalent to his status as the lord of Gaza City.

“What I offer for this task is no challenge, Your Majesty.”

“Leeha-ssi? Why suddenly-”

“But to assassinate her alone, without the palace’s support, without state assistance… It’s nearly impossible, Your Majesty.”

Leeha gave Shin Nara a quick wink, signaling he’d explain later, and continued, despite Rotzak’s disapproval.

“What are you saying? Even as a Medal of Honor recipient, how can you bargain with His Majesty?”

“What do you mean, lotzak-nim?”

Leeha stared directly at him, not letting Rotzak avoid his gaze.

“Are you implying I’m bargaining? What negotiation could I possibly have when taking on such a life-risking mission? I’m aware of the risks. After my death, I’ll become a public enemy. Why would I negotiate? I’m just expressing my hope that His Majesty won’t forget me once the mission is completed.”

Kneeling before the king, Leeha’s gesture seemed almost holy. Rotzak couldn’t respond.

The king, moved, nodded at Leeha.

“You are indeed a loyal subject of Fibiel. If this task is completed successfully, I will not forget you. I can’t be remembered as a tyrant who neglects a Medal of Honor recipient. Is there anything you desire? Perhaps a chance to choose from the royal treasury?”

“… Thank you, Your Majesty.”

Leeha responded with feigned emotion. The hologram window updated:

『This matter is unknown to our Fibiel.』

Reward: Title – Shadow Hitman

Access to Fibiel’s Royal Treasury (1 item, 1-time use)

Seeing another notification, Leeha pressed the accept button.

『You have successfully negotiated.』

‘That Rotzak, always sharp. But I’ve got to take my gains.’

His gamble of ‘negotiating’ with the king had paid off. But the real gamble was just beginning.

Now, how to assassinate Chiyou?

(To be continued…)
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 “Unbelievable! You accepted that quest? Leeha-ssi! And you negotiated with the king? You could get into serious trouble later—”

“Shh, quiet, Nara-ssi! Don’t raise your voice. I almost got into big trouble with Rotzak glaring at me already.”

“-mmph, heup!”

Leaving Fibiel’s palace, Leeha explained the recent events to Shin Nara. Her surprise was natural, considering the situation. The ‘Bargaining’ skill isn’t something that worked on just anyone. If Leeha hadn’t been adequately leveled or if he had spoken awkwardly after using the skill, he could have been arrested for disrespecting the king – such is the world of Middle Earth.

“This stays between us, okay?”

“Of course.”

Leeha removed his hand from covering Shin Nara’s mouth. She could have easily moved his hand away with her strength and agility, but she chose to stay still, keeping her discontent to herself.

“So what will you do? The quest seems quite challenging.”

“Yes, keeping it secret is crucial.”

The quest’s success condition was simple: assassinate Chiyou within 7 days. However, the failure condition was not to be detected. A single misstep could mean immediate failure if Chiyou escapes and reports to Minis’ palace.

“Are you taking this risk just for an item from the royal treasury?”

“Uh, yes, of course.”

Shin Nara looked worriedly at Leeha, who nodded nonchalantly. The royal treasury of Fibiel wasn’t just any storage but a collection of the kingdom’s treasures, overseen by the deputy finance minister.

‘I even got these boots from there!’

From the moment he used the ‘Negotiation’ skill, Leeha’s goal was to find an item with the skill ‘Joint Fixation: Upper’ to complement the ‘Joint Fixation: Lower’ skill of his current boots.

“If I can just get that skill.”

That was Leeha’s big picture – eyeing the next quest for Black Bass.

“I’ll start at Gaza City. Chiyou is likely back at Minis’ palace, so I’ll have to track her from there.”

“You’re doing the tracking yourself?”

“Heh, Nara-ssi, I have more means than you think. I’ll keep in touch if things go well!”


Leeha activated his crystal ball.

As it buzzed to life, Nara hesitantly spoke.

“Um, you didn’t forget, did you?”

“Forget what?”

“I won’t rush you since you’re busy with this… but once it’s over—”

In a burst of violet light, Leeha was gone before she could finish.

“We were supposed to go on a date after you returned from the New Continent…”

Days had passed in real time since his return from the New Continent without any contact, making her anxious. Yet she chose to trust and wait for Leeha.

At least from her extensive experience in the New Continent, Shin Nara had learned one thing for certain.

“Aha, right, right. I promised to see you outside, didn’t I, Nara-ssi?!”

Leeha remembered just in time, saved by the malfunctioning crystal ball.

‘I’ll be busy even after wrapping this up.’

Despite thinking about his upcoming tasks, Leeha didn’t slow his pace. After successfully dealing with Chiyou, he had to visit Fibiel’s royal treasury, complete the quest at the Papacy, meet with Shin Nara, manage Gaza City, and then it would be time to go to Hong Kong.

‘I feel like I’ve suddenly become someone important.’

Leeha was reminded of the days when he felt powerless and just lay at home. Days when, far from hope of recovery from surgery, he couldn’t find interest in anything. Despite the hardships, the game Middle Earth had certainly made his life better.

“Welcome—oh, city lord.”

“Is Madam Joo upstairs?”

“Yes.”

“Okay, I am going up.”

Leeha, smiling contentedly, arrived at the Holy Grill in Gaza City. Tracking Chiyou was not something Leeha needed to do himself. If it were a typical ‘hunt’, Leeha would personally pursue Chiyou, but now the quest changed the context. He planned to utilize the Holy Grill’s agents to track Chiyou’s movements, then…


“I’ll kill her. This time. Definitely.”

Whether she’s the head of Shinobigumi or not, Leeha had a clear reason to kill her. What was once a personal matter had turned into an official one.

“Madam〜!”

Leeha burst into the Holy Grill.

But what neither Leeha, Shin Nara, nor the NPC intelligence guild of the Holy Grill knew was a hidden secret. On the day Leeha was first appointed as the lord of Gaza City, the city was attacked and destroyed by Faust and other minions of the Demon King. How did they know which city Leeha was going to be lord of? And so immediately after his appointment?

In a corner of Fibiel’s palace, someone murmured to themselves. A figure clad in a robe of the Mage Squad, not Rotzak, but someone else, was whispering:

“-So it can’t be regarded as accurate information, but it’s possible that the assassination order against Okasan came from Fibiel.”

“Such rumors are circulating in the Mage Squad?”

“Yes. Including the mumblings of the Mage Squad leader, it seems to be information he personally uncovered.”

“Hmm, I see. No wonder, the king seemed less intimidating than Rotzak lurking behind him. Sly as a fox indeed.”

“It’s certain that he’s the one to watch out for in Fibiel’s palace.”

Sasuke nodded in agreement with Chiyou’s statement.

Their spy in Fibiel’s palace. Well, not exactly a spy, since the Mage Squad member was genuinely a native of Fibiel according to the game lore. But they couldn’t fully control a user.

Their role was more as an information conduit. A hefty fee for information? For Chiyou, it was nothing.

“He asked for 100 gold, right?”

“Yes.”

“Give him 200 gold. Tell him we appreciate his work and to keep it up. Oh, and if we have any magical ingredients he wants, add those too. Make sure he never betrays us.”

“As you wish, oka-san.”

In Middle Earth, magical research required significant funding, even for the royal Mage Squad. It’s natural that not all members could have their research fully funded. Chiyou, identifying potential talents early, had been supporting a few promising Mage Squad members across various kingdoms since the game’s early days.

A smart and talented NPC mage without funds was just ‘food’ for Chiyou.


“So, what’s the plan for dealing with Leeha? Maybe report to the palace?”

“Hmm… Yes, that’s a good idea. I don’t know the specifics of the quest, but if it involves an assassination order against me, it’s better to make it official. Fibiel might offer me protection at a national level, or Minis could formally protest against Fibiel. Maybe this could be an opportunity for Minis to disregard Fibiel and seize power in the New Continent.”

Chiyou couldn’t know exactly what quest Leeha had received, its details, rewards, or failure conditions. However, with her ability to deduce possibilities from fragmented information and general trends, she was already considering various scenarios.

“If that happens, minis’ palace will, of course, have to…”

“Yes. They can’t ignore it. Putting the Fox of the Prairie as governor and controlling all rights in the New Continent would be feasible. But…”

“But what?”

“It would be boring that way. For future plans involving Bluebeard, it might be better to also sway Leeha. How to do that, though…”

Chiyou crossed her legs, a smile playing on her lips, unfazed by Sasuke’s fleeting glance.

“The only way is to prove myself.”

“What do you mean?”

“One reason Leeha doesn’t like me might be that he sees me as incompetent.”

“That’s impossible. You, oka-san—”

“Right, that’s probably it. He doesn’t know my true identity, and I haven’t shown my capabilities during the New Continent voyage.”

Sasuke’s expression darkened, guessing what she meant.

“It’s too dangerous.”

“When has it not been? But… risking your life for Leeha—”

“He’s a big fish now.”

“Big fish?”

“… Yes, he’s that significant now.”

Chiyou’s eyes briefly sharpened, then softened as she glanced at Sasuke.

“Don’t worry too much. Do you think I’m unprepared?”

“Yes, but please reconsider the risks if something happens to you.”

How do NPCs perceive a user’s death in a high-stakes game like Middle Earth? Deaths are frequent, so NPCs in Middle Earth are programmed to alter their memory only in relation to 『specific events』.

“Even if I die, the bigger picture of Minis remains unchanged. If my death becomes known to Minis’ palace, I’ll lose my influence in the New Continent affair, but that’s only if I fail… It’s simple. In the worst case, Sasuke can act on my behalf, right?”

Chiyou laughed lightly.

Sasuke realized he couldn’t dissuade her.

“Understood.”

It took three more days in Middle Earth time for Leeha to pinpoint Chiyou’s location.

(To be continued…)
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 “In the Silver Plains?”

Leeha inquired.

“Yes! It’s the land beyond the northwest border of Minis. If you go through the Silver Plains and keep heading north, you can reach the edge of the Shazrashian Federation, but it’s an area that can’t be used as a normal passage route due to the monsters.”

“Silver Plains… Can I get a map?”

“What do you take us for? Here! I’ve marked the last known location of Chiyou and her expected movement trajectory. This should be all the information you need, right?”

Leeha had rushed here immediately upon receiving the call from the Holy Grill. As always, madam Joo had everything he needed ready, even before he asked.

“Setting up a Holy Grill branch here was a stroke of genius.”

“It’s mutualism for us. Increased foot traffic from your successful management benefits us.”

“We’ve moved beyond mutualism to symbiosis. I’m off now!”

With a grin, Leeha left, followed by Madam Joo’s laughter.

“Remember the tax benefits, okay?”

Whether Leeha heard her final shout was uncertain as he was already heading to the warp gate, quickly familiarizing himself with the geography and landmarks of the Silver Plains.

‘Is she heading towards Shazrashian? No, that doesn’t make sense. If she had diplomatic work in Shazrashian, she could’ve just warped there. Why choose such a rough path?’

If the Silver Plains were a buffer zone like the ones between Fibiel and Minis or Minis and Shazrashian, then it was a wide area with frequent monster appearances and no regular NPC management. Leeha quickly surmised Chiyou’s intent.

‘There could be a Shinobigumi safe house or even something more important, like a headquarters.’

Chiyou, as the head of the organization, wouldn’t show herself anywhere without reason. After leaving Fibiel’s palace, she had been visiting cities in Minis.

‘On the surface, she seemed to be just managing her taverns and restaurants, but all these activities were either for gaining experience, completing quests, or managing Shinobigumi. A leader’s movements are always meaningful.’

The Holy Grill’s intelligence couldn’t provide detailed insights, but they kept track of her location. However, since she was within Minis cities, there was no opportunity to target her, making this the perfect chance – in a place untouched by any watchful eyes, with only a few wandering monsters as witnesses.

‘I must kill her. Another opportunity like this might not come again.’

Failure was not an option. If she managed to blend back into the city crowds or logged out, the remaining four days would be wasted.


For Leeha, this was likely his first and last opportunity.

Woosh! He warped to the northernmost city of Minis and hastened his pace.

‘Wait for me, Chiyou.’

At the edge of his vision, the silver grass of the plains began to appear. The Silver Plains were near.

Shaa! A teal light flashed beside him.

“Blaugrunn, perfect timing!”

『Kyuu, kyuu?』

“I was about to call you anyway. Good, you’re here.”

Blaugrunn circled around Leeha’s head. Leeha quickly grabbed and hugged Blaugrunn’s tail, silencing him with a soft ‘shh.’

“We need to be cautious now. There’s nothing in sight yet, but you never know.”

『Kyu.』

Blaugrunn whispered back softly. The entrance to the Silver Plains was devoid of monsters and any hiding places. If Leeha couldn’t be spotted, then nobody else could spot him either.

‘Still, be cautious. Mana Insight.’

A brief noise followed, and Leeha’s eyes could now detect entities accumulating internal mana. Tiny dots, definitely far away, moved about in the distance.

‘Don’t worry about the monsters. No users around.’

The worst-case scenario for Leeha would have been Shinobigumi members positioned nearby. Fortunately, the surroundings were tranquil.

“Let’s go.”

“Kyuu!”

Blaugrunn nestled against Leeha’s chest.

“Kyuu, kyuu!”


Jellypong suddenly reached out and grabbed Blaugrunn. Leeha, with his free hands, loaded a magazine into his Black Bass and continued his pursuit.

The Silver Plains lived up to their name with silver grasses and other similarly hued flora. Near the Shazrashian border, this area was known for cold-attribute monsters. There were even rumors of a recent dragon lair sighting in the uncharted areas beyond the plains.

‘Was it a Silver Dragon? No, that was somewhere else. Dragons seem to be appearing more frequently lately.’

In Middle Earth, frequent dragon appearances might indicate either an increase in players’ skills or subtle changes in the game’s settings. Leeha remembered this fact but couldn’t determine its cause.

‘Anyway, no dragons should appear around here. If it’s a Silver Dragon, great, if it’s a metal dragon, it’s on my side.’

Leeha rustled the map given by Madam Joo. While the monsters in the Silver Plains were formidable, they weren’t Chiyou’s hunting targets. She would likely avoid the main monster habitats, and Madam Joo had noted these locations on the map.

Using Mana Insight to scan for anomalies and Eagle’s Eye and scope for further clarification, Leeha knew he couldn’t afford to fail this hunt. He had to succeed at all costs.

Continuing cautiously, Leeha finally caught a small mana dot moving sluggishly in the distance, distinct from the surrounding monsters. He raised his scope and smiled.

“Bingo.”

Chiyou had come into view. On a whim, Leeha even tried using the ‘Marking’ skill.

High-level players often use items to prevent marking and screenshotting, but these are merely preventative measures. They don’t alert the player that someone attempted such actions. Therefore, there’s no risk of being caught if marking fails.

“What?”

This time was different. The T1 notation on Madam Joo’s map indicated that Chiyou had been marked.

‘Why didn’t she use a marking prevention item? Is she really the head of Shinobigumi? Well, it’s still an assumption, but still…’

Perhaps this was why the Holy Grill’s agents could track her.

『Kyuu?』

“Intriguing, isn’t it?”

『Kyuu.』

Blaugrunn looked at the map and then at Leeha with wide eyes. For Leeha, this was an unexpected stroke of luck. Unless he removes the marking, he can track her movements for at least three days in Middle Earth time.

‘But I can’t wait that long. If she retreats to Minis’ palace, it’s over.’


Leeha didn’t need three days. He just needed to determine the best sniping spot in the Silver Plains and her final stop. Then his instincts would do the rest.

Leeha didn’t rush. He continuously monitored and tracked her, comparing the real-life view with the map, using his scope and Eagle’s Eye skill, ensuring she didn’t make any sudden moves.

One step at a time…

It was a tedious task – hours of waiting and observing. But as long as Chiyou kept moving, pinpointing a sniping spot was difficult. Leeha knew this well. Assassination required patience.

If she were a monster, he could shoot from this distance, but Chiyou was no ordinary person. Leeha wasn’t willing to take that risk.

‘Where is she heading? Why is she moving so slowly? Is she going to a dungeon?’

At the entrance of the Silver Plains, there were some ordinary users. They were forming parties and hunting, likely too far to recognize either Leeha or Chiyou.

Now, those users were no longer in sight.

It was just the plains, Chiyou, and Leeha. When Chiyou’s slow walk finally stopped after hours, it felt abrupt to Leeha.

“Why here?”

Leeha wondered, surveying the area dense with waist-high silver grass and a shallow hill marked by a large rock. He quickly compared the map from Madam Joo with Chiyou’s position.

He calculated the angles, the best cover for himself, the safest spots for positioning, and the optimal sniping location. All these calculations were completed in just 3 seconds.

“Okay. Let’s go.”

“Kyuu.”

Identifying his sniping spot, Leeha made eye contact with Blaugrunn, then stealthily started moving. It took him roughly 38 minutes to reach his chosen spot, during which Chiyou remained motionless.

Suddenly, someone approached Chiyou.

‘Who’s that?’ Leeha zoomed in with his scope. It was Sasuke meeting Chiyou in the Silver Plains. This confirmed Leeha’s suspicions – Chiyou was indeed the head of Shinobigumi.

Their meeting indicated important, confidential information, something not even other Shinobigumi members could know. Sasuke, a high-ranking figure, must be delivering something crucial directly to Chiyou, hence choosing such a secluded location.

Leeha’s guess soon turned into reality as Sasuke handed Chiyou something that looked like a piece of paper.

Chiyou paused to read it, providing Leeha the perfect opportunity. She had to be still while reading, making her an easy target.

‘End of the line, Chiyou.’

Leeha was camouflaged among dark-Brown tree trunks, his Black Bass’s barrel peeking out, virtually invisible.

He adjusted the scope already set for the shot. The wind was strong, but Leeha’s bullets ignored wind speed and direction. His posture was steady, lying prone with an optimal firing angle.

He took extra precautions, using the skill ‘Calm Mind’ for supreme stability.

Leeha’s finger started to move, barely millimeters away from the trigger point. Then he saw something through the scope – Chiyou was looking directly at him.

A thunderous shot echoed across the plains.

(To be continued…)
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 “Attached, it’s attached. Oo-hoo-hoot.”

Chiyou walked on. She had the leisure to enjoy the sensation of the grass rustling, and crinkling underfoot.

Sasuke: Are you okay, oka-san?

Chiyou: Yes. It’s definitely more convenient having an NPC Info Guild. I did reveal myself intentionally, but there were no tails following me… yet Ha Leeha immediately knew my location, go figure.

Sasuke: It’s an unavoidable consequence of the system’s advantages.

Chiyou: I know. Just grumbling a bit. We run around day and night for a single piece of information, it’s frustrating.

On the day Chiyou realized that Leeha had received some kind of order, she deliberately made herself visible. Moving from city to city in Minis, she intentionally used warp gates and walked on main roads. If ordinary users were to gather information, they would have to sit somewhere on the main road, or at least run a stall, and report after physically confirming things. But NPCs were NPCs. As Chiyou complained, the way NPCs from Holy Grill gathered information wasn’t like that.

Madam Joo had claimed to have conducted the investigation herself to lend realism to Leeha, but in reality, it was a utilization of the system’s advantages.

“Well, since I’ve also confirmed the methods of the NPC Intelligence Guild, I guess it’s two birds with one stone. As expected, Ha Leeha is our lucky charm.”

Chiyou continued walking forward. Leeha, following her from behind, couldn’t see her front, let alone understand what the small things in front of Chiyou’s eyes meant.

Whee-ing——!

As soon as Chiyou entered the Silver Plains, what she used was the creation of a map.

Chiyou could light up the surroundings with the map, and yet, unlike Rubini’s, it was not blatantly large but a very small, personal map that only she could understand.

Chiyou walked in a languid, swaying manner? That was the very act of casting a skill.

Dancing doesn’t always require vigorous movements.

With minimal motion through mana control, she could extract just the essential information she needed. That was the ability of Chiyou, the descendant of the hero from the Dancer class.

Chiyou could clearly see some entity trailing behind her.

Although it wasn’t marked as ‘Leeha’, who else would be following her at this moment?

Especially someone who subtly changes direction and persistently follows at a fixed distance behind her.

Chiyou: Is everything ready?


Sasuke: Yes, finished. I’ve saved everything near the location you mentioned.

Chiyou: Good, good job. I’m curious about what Ha Leeha is up to, so for now, Sasuke just wait.

Sasuke: Understood.

“So cute, so cute.”

Chiyou, after finishing her whisper with Sasuke, looked at the icon of Leeha following her, as if inspecting a small pet.

If there was no skill.

Or even if there was a skill, but without the certainty that Leeha was following her?

“It would have been hard to notice. Impressive. Skills surpassing even a professional hunter. Only a few of our well-trained ones could manage such movements… Too far is no good, too close is no good either. The basics of tailing and tracking are maintaining distance. To do that, one must thoroughly predict the target’s movements.”

Chiyou watched Leeha’s movements with a pleased expression.

Chiyou continued her languid stroll across the Silver Plains.

And finally, she found the ‘pre-arranged’ spot.

Chiyou: Sasuke, I’m almost there～

Sasuke: Understood. I’ll start moving too.

Chiyou: Okay. Have the kids on standby too.

Sasuke: Understood.

Chiyou slowly walked up a hill covered with reeds. She noticed Leeha’s position changing rapidly.

“As expected. The moment I’m sure of the place to stop, he moves. How can there be no hesitation?”

Leeha was moving somewhere, busily scanning the area.

Was he clearing obstructions near his sniping spot? But Chiyou couldn’t confirm that far.

Sasuke: I’m almost there.


Chiyou: Okay. I’m fine, but Sasuke, you know you have to be careful, right?

Sasuke: I understand.

Sasuke could be seen walking from a distance. Chiyou immediately changed her movement. It was slightly different from her previous languid strides. Though she seemed to be standing still, with every movement of her shoulders, waist, knees, and feet cutting through the air, new information was being inputted to her.

“Here it is, oka-san.”

“Uhm, halihali might not be able to hear our conversation, but can you be careful when you call me? Especially outside.”

“Ha, ha! I’m sorry, Chiyou-nim.”

“Yes, yes. It’s better for both of us, Sasuke-nim. Give me what you brought.”

Sasuke handed a piece of paper to Chiyou. Then, he discreetly stepped back, creating some distance. Chiyou began examining the paper she received. Her eyebrows twitched as her facial muscles moved, but the paper Sasuke gave her had no content written on it. It was just a very thin, smooth something placed on top.

Chiyou was focused. Staring at the thin, thin mirror placed on the paper.

She carefully observed her reflection in the mirror.

Right in front of her forehead, where there was nothing just moments ago, a translucent something appeared. It was suddenly created, glowing with a brass color.

“Here it comes.”

“The Dance of Sociability” allowed for anticipating attacks. One second before Leeha’s bullet reached, Chiyou lifted her head and twisted her body.

Crack, the bullet tore through the hill behind Chiyou.

Baaaaaang———-!

A loud noise followed.

Chiyou’s mouth opened simultaneously with the sound.

“Spot 1, send everyone to capture him alive!”

“Ha!”

Sasuke responded while simultaneously sending a group whisper. This was the spot Chiyou and Sasuke had earmarked early on. In the crystal balls of those active in Shinobigumi, this location and all potential sniping spots suitable for Leeha were already saved.


Swoosh, swoosh, swoosh-!

With a flash of purple light, shadows poured down from the sky.

“Capture him! Capture Ha Leeha alive!”

Sasuke was already on the move. Leading the falling Shinobigumi, Sasuke’s eyes briefly flickered with a lime green light as he rushed to Leeha’s hiding place.

“What’s that now?”

In that moment, Sasuke felt it. Leeha had done something. At least something for ‘achieving his goal.’

“-Chiyou-niiiiim-! Everyone change direction! Use ‘Instant Movement’! One of you block the space!”

Chiyou heard Sasuke’s shout. No, she knew even before hearing it. The translucent, brass-colored bullet that pierced her chest ‘from behind’! She gritted her teeth and twisted her body.

Baaaaang————! A loud noise resounded.

‘What, she saw me?!’

Leeha immediately sensed something was wrong. However, it was too late to stop his fingers. With a click, the feeling of his finger pulling the trigger, the bullet was already fired. The loud noise shook Leeha’s head, but he was used to it and wasn’t greatly affected.

What was truly shocking was something else.

“She dodged it! That woman-”

Before the bullet was even fired, she had moved and dodged Leeha’s attack! If she knew of Leeha’s presence, it was natural that the attack wouldn’t work.

He knew what her abilities were, what “The Dance of Sociability” was.

‘I knew it. No, I didn’t just know it. It’s not possible to react like that with just that knowledge.’

If it wasn’t just knowledge, then there was only one answer.

‘It’s a trap. Chiyou lured me out.’

It wasn’t Chiyou who got caught in the information network. It was Leeha who got caught in Chiyou’s net!

As if to prove this conjecture, purple lights flashed everywhere. Leeha knew exactly what those who landed would do. But he couldn’t run. If he returned now, it would be the same as failing the quest!

‘I have no chance. I only have 3 days. If I fail this time, I might never see Chiyou’s face again.’

As they landed and Sasuke, who had been running all this time, started to lead them, Leeha opened one of his prepared cards. He saved his current location in the crystal ball. Then he activated the crystal ball. The activation location: his current position.

It seemed like a nonsensical tactic, but Leeha was confident. With 10 seconds left until the crystal ball activated, Leeha immediately used a skill.

“Summon: Partner!”

Swoosh-!

When a lime green light flashed, Leeha had already reached the exact opposite point from where he had just sniped. Waiting for him at the top of the hill wasn’t a person.

『Kyu-Kyu-Kyu!』

Right before Chiyou stopped, Leeha’s partner, separated to act independently, greeted him. The bronze dragon hatchling, blaugrun, cried out to welcome Leeha.

‘The distance has been shortened. 720m, quickly adjust the click!’

8 seconds, 7 seconds, click, click, quickly adjusting, Leeha took a prone shooting position. It was then that Sasuke and the Shinobigumi, who had been running towards Leeha’s previous position, stopped. Leeha aimed at Chiyou’s chest.

‘Will she detect the attack from behind this time?’

“-Chiyou-niiiiim-!”

Leeha pulled the trigger. A loud noise erupted.

Baaaaaang———

“Damn it!”

But, the satisfying result Leeha hoped for did not occur. Was it thanks to Sasuke’s shout, or Chiyou’s own skill? She had successfully dodged Leeha’s real attack. While Leeha was feeling frustrated, Sasuke and the Shinobigumi had already changed direction and were rushing at full speed towards the hill where Leeha was.

There was no time for hesitation.

“Blaugrunn, you need to follow well!”

『Kyu!』

2 seconds, 1 second, and swoosh-! The crystal ball that had been activated earlier came into play. One of the tactics Leeha had been practicing: using Blaugrunn for multi-angle sniping and timed crystal ball activation!

Sniping from the front and then immediately moving to Blaugrunn, positioned at a ‘similar distance’, to fire another shot!

The original plan was to snipe from multiple angles ‘simultaneously’, making it impossible to defend, but Leeha couldn’t fully utilize it in practice as it had failed even against monsters in the ruins of Fibiel.

Moreover, this time, blaugrun and Leeha weren’t at the same distance from their target, Chiyou, which is why it took a few seconds to adjust the clicks.

Leeha, who was on the hill, was instantly transported to the place where Sasuke and the Shinobigumi were running just moments ago. Blaugrunn, who had been Leeha’s ‘moving return point’, also moved next to Leeha through the summoning skill.

“Another move? Where to-”

Sasuke, who had sped up using skills, was bewildered. The light of teleportation flashed once again on the hill, and Leeha’s figure disappeared.

“What are you all doing?! He moved again! Turn around, turn!”

Chiyou, having used the map skill again, pointed in Leeha’s direction as she raised her voice. One of the Shinobigumi members, following Sasuke’s earlier order, pulled out a space-locking scroll. The moment the scroll was torn, his head flew off.

Baaang———

The head of a Shinobigumi member exploded.

‘It’s different from the voyage to the new continent. The rest aren’t sharing Chiyou’s skills.’

However, Leeha regretted being even a fraction of a second late.

A purple barrier was already surrounding him.

“The space is locked, and he’s dead!”

“That’s enough for the mission! Ignore the dead, and capture Ha Leeha! Or kill him, it’s fine! We know which village he’ll respawn in!”

Ha!

Sasuke and the Shinobigumi agents responded.

Leeha, at the original sniping point of Chiyou, swallowed dryly. Even excluding Chiyou, the total number of people Sasuke brought from the Shinobigumi was about thirty. Just kill Chiyou and escape? But as long as “The Dance of Sociability” continued, even Leeha wouldn’t be able to hit her.

Moreover, the other members of Sasuke and the Shinobigumi wouldn’t leave Leeha alone, focusing so intently, and the space was already locked.

“1:31… It’s going to be close.” 『Kyu-uuuuu…』

Leeha and Blaugrunn both sighed simultaneously.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

For those who are confused, Leeha used his crystal ball, and while waiting for the crystal to activate, teleported next to Blaugrunn using his skill, shot Chiyou, and then teleported back to his previous location when the crystal ball activated. 
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 A shot was fired again.

Baaaang! The running Shinobigumi members fluttered like pieces of paper, turning into a milky color.

‘No special method? I need to kill Chiyou quickly-‘

Although Leeha hit the target with a hasty adjustment and firing, there was no time to smile. The shouts coming from afar made it impossible.

『Multiple Clones』!”

『Shadow Expansion』!”

『Diffuse Reflection』!”

Even if one person died, there were still thirty Shinobigumi members.

As soon as one fell, they immediately used their skills. The figures that were running seemed to multiply by three or more, and it wasn’t an illusion.

Most professions in the Shinobigumi specialized in moving in darkness. They had plenty of skills to inflate their numbers or hide almost invisibly. Moreover, they already knew how Leeha was attacking with what weapon. An intense attack that made defense impossible! But the weakness of a sniper is having to focus on one person! The Shinobigumi, adept in handling information, would have prepared for Leeha’s attacks.

“Damn it, why do they know so much about me?!”

He had to shoot Chiyou.

Only she mattered! But how?! As long as the 『Dance of Diplomacy』 skill continued, hitting her was impossible for Leeha.

‘The only chance is to create an ‘unavoidable crossfire’ with Blaugrunn and fire simultaneously.’

But that required enough time. And now that he’d shown his cards, the chances of Chiyou being fooled again were extremely low. Should he approach for a bayonet charge?

‘Damn! That’s nonsense!’ How could he reach her through a barrage of assassins? Through the approaching Shinobigumi.

‘Fortunately, in this situation, Chiyou won’t run first.’

If she feels overwhelmingly advantageous, there’s no reason for Chiyou to flee. As evidence, she was still standing there, looking at Leeha. Positive thinking even in the current situation! Leeha relaxed his tension and quickly reloaded. Just waiting won’t kill Chiyou. He had to move. Act. Do something.

『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”

Now, like this! Baaaaang!


The shot bullet split into dozens and poured down.

“Ah, no!”

“Argh-!”

The attack was so sudden that they couldn’t even scream properly. But compared to the figures pulverized by the multi-warhead shot, only three actual ashen corpses were formed. More than twenty were mere clones. Using a high-level skill to catch only three was disappointing for Leeha.

“Ohoho, interesting. With that level of skill, there must be a considerable cooldown… So, is Leeha’s means coming to an end?”

Chiyou laughed.

Deploying thirty elite Shinobigumi members for this operation was a significant investment for her. But killing Leeha would definitely be a profitable deal.

‘If he dies here, he’ll respawn in a small town in Minis. We’ve already occupied the place where he’ll resurrect.’

Just one death was needed. Then it would be possible to perpetually hunt Leeha every time he logs in. Whether Leeha quits the game or not, it’s fine. Then he’ll eventually come to her. The 『Contract』 will be a great constraint.

‘Finally… Hoho, finally getting a good chess piece.’

Chiyou shivered with joy. The gunshots kept ringing, but they echoed hollowly in the empty space of the Silver Plain. Swoosh, swoosh, only the clones disappeared.

The Shinobigumi members had almost reached Leeha’s sniping spot, the few bushes of the Silver Plain.

“Good, good. Catch him! Capture Leeha!”

Chiyou was excited like never before. During the expedition to the new continent, she had never shown such a disheveled look. Her face was distorted with joy and ecstasy.

And just as her face was smeared with joy, a massive explosion interrupted Chiyou’s words.

Baaaaang!

“-What…?”

Chiyou couldn’t believe it when an explosion occurred. After the explosion, hundreds of metal ball bullets unleashed overwhelming firepower. Although only three were killed with the multi-warhead shot, more than five were eliminated with a single explosion. Including the vanished clones, it seemed like over thirty figures had evaporated.

“What is that…?”

When Chiyou was in disbelief, Leeha in the woods smiled.


“Hehe, this time it’s not a ‘makeshift’ one. It’s the ‘real’ claymore, filled with the soul of Bottleneck.”

Was such extensive preparation necessary just for sniping? Of course not.

“Be careful! There’s something in the woods – Ah!”

Baaaang! Another explosion occurred, this time with a massive flame reaching the treetops.

Sasuke, who arrived first at the forest but hesitated to enter, stepped back a few steps due to the explosion’s power.

“Ah, should I have mentioned that I didn’t just make claymores?”

It was the moment when the true nature of the items Leeha had asked Bottleneck in Gaza City to make was revealed. Easily installable and with several times more destructive power, the ‘real’ booby traps began to shine.

“Let’s have some fun, shinobigumi friends.”

Leeha stood up with his sniper rifle. The forest in the Silver Plain wasn’t large. He needed to avoid getting caught in his own traps while ensuring they were sufficiently activated.

“Sasukeeee! Leeha is escaping! Chase him!”

“Yes! All Shinobigumi, advance!”

Hearing Chiyou’s loud voice, Sasuke had no choice but to move cautiously, step by step.

Baaang! Chiyou flinched. She still lightly swayed her body, maintaining the 『Dance of Diplomacy』 skill. The mapping skill was over. Chiyou had a valid reason for only using the 『Dance of Diplomacy』.

‘It’s impossible. I didn’t move for even an hour after stopping. Just about 40 minutes?’

How did he get such equipment so quickly? When did he have the time to set up so many traps? And why would he even think of setting traps?

Chiyou chewed on her lip in frustration.

Baaaang! Another explosion and scream echoed outside the forest. Chiyou was monitoring the guild members’ situation in real time. Two more logged out due to the strange noise!

The casualties were increasing rapidly, yet there was no news of capturing Leeha.

What was the Musketeer doing now?!

Chiyou: Sasuke! What are you doing?!


Sasuke: Okasan! Ha Leeha’s movements are more agile than expected

Chiyou: Of course! It is correct to say that his agility stat has already exceeded 2,500! Are you going to catch him simply by his movements? Sasuke: Sorry! But it’s not just that. He moves like a monkey, jumping through trees. We can’t catch up with him. Something invisible seems to assist his movement…

Chiyou: Climbing trees? A Musket-tier with such a skill-

Kuooooong! A roar that seemed to engulf the entire forest in red light interrupted Sasuke’s whisper. That’s when Sasuke’s whispers stopped.

Chiyou was anxious.

What exactly was happening?

In the forest, thirty elite Shinobigumi members and Sasuke could suppress two or three tankers outside the top ten simultaneously. Yet, they were struggling against a single opponent who wasn’t even a tanker.

‘The space is locked. No one can come or go. Does Leeha really think he can kill everyone, including Sasuke? Impossible! He’s a Musketeer. How is this even happening?’ The Holy Grill’s information guild wasn’t the only one investigating Chiyou. Shinobigumi also knew everything there was to know about Leeha. Recently, Leeha’s only movements, if not in Gaza City, were hunting, hunting, hunting. Chiyou carefully opened her bag. The space lock lasted only 15 minutes. About 10 minutes had passed, and if Leeha could kill the rest, including Sasuke, in the remaining 5 minutes?

‘Even the possibility of that happening seems dangerous. What if he really reaches me?’

Riding a bear that spat fireballs and roared while digging through the ground, he might come to kill her. Chiyou’s worries were becoming a reality.

At this moment, Chiyou felt a strong obsession with Leeha. Such a person with these abilities?!

More skilled in trap utilization than a Trapper, better at tactical analysis than an Oracle, with the ultimate advantage of a long-range dealer in extreme attack power and long-distance shooting!

“Well, even so, it’s impossible to kill me.”

Despite a bit of worry, Chiyou wasn’t trembling in fear. Explosions, loud noises, and gunshots continued, and now less than ten Shinobigumi members remained, yet she was confident.

‘As long as I survive this game… I won’t lose.’

Leeha’s goal was ‘Chiyou’s assassination.’ Even if she failed to achieve that goal, Chiyou could still gain. The only disappointment was the opportunity cost of deploying Shinobigumi members elsewhere, but that was something she could easily recover.

A mix of ease, worry, excitement, and curiosity swirled inside her. This was why she played Middle Earth. Confidence and assurance in controlling everything, with the presence and stimulation of an opponent who breaks all those sensations!

“This is why I can’t quit this game. Ahhh…”

She shivered as if embracing a loved one. That’s when she heard a strange noise.

CRASH!

“Hmm?”

It sounded like hammering, but the resonance was different. A hammering that echoed throughout the Silver Plain?

CRASH! CRASH!

The second and third noises followed. The intervals shortened, and the sound grew louder. Chiyou was bewildered. What was this now?

Chiyou: Sasuke! Where is Leeha? Is he far? If it looks like we’re failing, at least report it!

She whispered to Sasuke but received no response.

CRASH!

With the fourth sound, she was certain. Something was wrong. Leeha had another hidden trick! She must escape!

CRASH—–

The fifth hammering sound came with a shattering noise. A sound loud enough to make one cringe, as if all the windows of a giant building shattered.

“Ugh?!”

Chiyou wrapped her arms around herself, crouching down. The sound, touching a primal fear, indicated something she now understood.

‘There’s still about 2 minutes left?!’

It was the sound of space lock collapsing. The purple barrier shattered like broken glass. Chiyou reached into her bag. She grabbed and tore a teleport scroll in less than a second.

WHOOSH!

The sound of the paper tearing was futilely split in the air.

“Sigh… That was close. Long time no see, Chiyou?”

“Y-You- Why are you here-”

“Why? You’re asking me that? Really? You don’t know why I’m here?”

The polite male voice and attitude changed in an instant. Chiyou tried to tear another teleport scroll, but it was still unresponsive.

“You can’t try to escape from a Sage. If I knew you were the head of Shinobigumi during the New Continent expedition, I would have sent you right down to the Dragon Palace. You must’ve had a hard time hiding, right?”

His smile was anything but friendly. The man in front of Chiyou was Sage Hyein. For ‘incidents caused by Shinobigumi’, he was a user with much to say.

(Continued…)
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 ‘How is Hyein here? Why? He was one of the key figures under surveillance, and there was nothing unusual in his recent movements!’ Chiyou was flustered.

What should she say first? Would that kind of talk even work on someone like him?

Once a puppet of Shinobigumi, he hadn’t been of much interest since being expelled from Byulcho. Shinobigumi started paying attention to Hyein again after the national war. Including a talent like him in the ‘observation targets’ during the New Continent voyage was natural.

Perhaps Hyein was the first person ever to be removed and then readmitted to Shinobigumi’s list of observation targets. But was that just due to his skills? Chiyou had re-added him to the watchlist for one reason.

‘No, it wasn’t his skills that bothered me about Hyein!’

It was the obsession hidden behind his innocent face and the surprising perseverance of someone who’d fallen off the track but managed to climb back up. His ability to smile while angry made Chiyou start observing him again.

“Are you in a hurry? Sure, you must be. You’re probably sending lots of whispers here and there. Sasuke, that annoying guy, I wanted to see his face too…”

“Oh, my. What are you talking about?”

“Ah, such a cute face. But what to do? I’m getting real-time updates from Leeha. So stop fooling around. If you keep this up, I’ll want to kill you. You know what I mean?”

“Are you here to kill me?”

“Want to keep talking like that?”

Hyein’s expression suddenly changed.

It wasn’t a threat. His body was already being infiltrated by purple particles.

Chiyou: Sasuke! What’s the situation?

Sasuke: Leeha- powerful-

Chiyou: Fool… Be prepared when you log in next time!

Chiyou cut off the whisper.

She turned off the location windows of the agents and Sasuke. Her vision cleared, and she wore a coquettish smile.

“It seems you have some misunderstanding, dear Hyein. Let’s talk instead of this.”

Chiyou swayed her hips as she walked towards Hyein. Hyein wasn’t a fool. Despite the situation seemingly going his way, there was no one around. In a 1:1 situation, a Dancer’s attack power would overwhelmingly surpass a Sage’s.


『Space Gr-”

“Don’t want to? Then die.”

SWOOSH!

Chiyou was well aware of this. She was just stalling for time to assess the situation!

Before Hyein could tap his staff on the ground, she had already leaped forward.

Her agility closed the gap, and a sharp blade protruded from the fan in her right hand.

Space Grab!

A targeting skill that could halt movement. She thought even Chiyou couldn’t avoid it, but her speed was faster than Hyein anticipated. The sharp blade aimed precisely at Hyein’s neck.

As Chiyou’s smile formed, instead of the expected tearing sound, a loud clang echoed.

“What?!”

『Space Grab』!”

A purple pillar engulfed her entirely. Hyein, who had cast the skill, was surrounded by a blue outline.

“Could it be…?!”

“Hey! Chiyou! Long time no see! Wow, you used 『Guardian’s Seal』 and still the damage is harsh! A ranker is a ranker. It felt stronger than even Tail hyung’s skills!”

“Of course, what else would you expect, Kay? After all, she’s a ranker.”

“Kijung always says such things to get himself disliked. Right, tail hyung?”

“Indeed, you know him well, Bobae-ssi.”

Trudging down from the top of the Silver Plain hill were three silhouettes. Chiyou recognized them. Even just hearing their voices was enough.

“Leeha hyung too, it’s originally our Byulcho’s matter, but he stubbornly insisted on ‘making it his own.’ Anyway, he has a strange sense of pride.”

“Haha, but isn’t that cute? He’s trying to differentiate between ‘public and private.'”


“No, it’s not about public or private. From what I see, Leeha hyung is sulking. He’s sulking because we hunted together in the New Continent and didn’t include him.”

Complaining yet vigilant. The robust shield bearer with a legendary sword was Byulcho’s guild master, master Kay, Kijung. Alongside him, wielding a flaming sword, was Byulcho’s assault captain Tail. A user with much to say about Shinobigumi, especially Sasuke.

And with them was Bobae, a female newbie in the Byulcho guild with no connections to Shinobigumi. Ironically, she was there to protect the ‘helpless men.’

“Kay, I was worried you were late.”

“Actually, it was pretty close.”

Hyein sighed as he looked at them. Without Kijung’s protective skill just now, Hyein would have been killed in one strike. But they moved as previously discussed, arriving just in time to control the situation.

“Where’s Leeha hyung?”

Chiyooooooooo-niiiiiim—!

Overriding Kijung’s question, Sasuke’s shout was heard. Emerging from the forest and charging towards Chiyou’s location, his figure was visible. However, no agents of Shinobigumi were accompanying him. Hyein, Kijung, tail, and Bobae all watched the black dot crossing the plain.

“Ah, I just got a whisper from Leeha hyung.”

Bobae responded to Kijung’s question.

“Hyung? What did he say?”

“Hmm, he asked me to suppress someone because they might die if he shoots. Honestly, only Leeha hyung would be so bold to say that to a tank.”

Bobae grumbled and pulled back her bowstring. Light arrows formed on her previously empty bow.

“What? Who are we suppressing?”

“That man running over there.”

“Sasuke?”

With a whoosh, the arrow was shot, creating a gust. Despite Sasuke’s fast approach, the distance was still over 500m. But for a top 10 ‘Bowmaster’ like her, that distance wasn’t a problem.

“Sasuke!”

Sasuke’s shin was pierced by the arrow. Kijung, Hyein, and Tail watched in disbelief.


Not turning ashen but getting up to limp towards Chiyou, there was a kind of pitifulness to him.

“Hahaha! No, Sasuke! Where are you going? Let’s play some more!”

Then, another user, riding a burning bear with a Bronze Dragon hatchling on his head, shouted while laughing.

“Sometimes it seems like Leeha hyung is playing with cheat codes, doesn’t it?”

“We should report him to the GMs.”

Kijung and Bobae could imagine Leeha’s laughter just by hearing his voice.

However he did it, his plan and actions perfectly subdued all of Shinobigumi.

“Hard work deserves reward.”

Tail smiled as he watched the grumbling Kijung and Bobae.

“Good triumphing over evil is also natural.”

All eyes turned to Chiyou. She could move her hands and feet, but her body was fixed. She could hear everything. When her arms and legs stretched out, everyone could predict how the situation would end.

“Jellypong!”

“Cough!”

Limping Sasuke was suddenly snatched by a translucent hand as Leeha joyfully shouted.

“Caught you! This is a big catch, a big catch!”

The hunt for Shinobigumi, with traps within traps and counter-traps, was almost at its end. It wasn’t that Leeha had perfectly predicted everything. The mental battle outside the actual combat was more intense.

Space Grab was as annoying as paralysis, fear, or petrification because once fixed in place, movement was impossible.

“… How on earth…”

Chiyou muttered, giving up everything. After high-fiving Kijung, Bobae, and Tail, Leeha dismounted the hatchling and walked towards her.

“How did I know? What, you didn’t know?”

“Then how did you prepare like this?”

“Haha, who knows? Even I find it amazing.”

Leeha grinned. The hurried preparations of the past few days flashed through his mind.

“There’s no way Holy Grill would suddenly ask for information like that. Even if they utilize a system-driven NPC information guild.”

It was fundamentally about understanding the difference between NPCs and the game. The user who had used the NPC information guild the most was undoubtedly Leeha. Having experienced how they handled information numerous times, Leeha had been suspicious of Holy Grill’s sudden capture of Chiyou’s movements. He didn’t believe she would expose herself without reason. There had to be an ulterior motive.

So, Leeha thought about what strategies Chiyou could employ, her characteristics, and the methods she had shown so far from the standpoint of ‘Shinobigumi’. Leeha’s decision to take insurance was based solely on ‘experience’. He had seen the meticulousness of Shinobigumi during the guild war between Byulcho and Hwahong, and later in various situations, including national wars.

“If I think about it, there’s only one conclusion.”

A bold trap.

If Chiyou exposed herself, Leeha would inevitably appear. Although he was momentarily startled, he knew her skills.

‘Because she has overwhelming confidence that she can dodge. If she can avoid my attacks with a 100% probability, it makes sense she wouldn’t hesitate to expose herself. That’s exactly what happened.’

Leeha didn’t know his quest event had been leaked, but that was irrelevant. What mattered was he had accurately grasped Chiyou’s intentions.

Without his past experiences, he wouldn’t have been able to predict the possibility of Shinobigumi agents appearing, or that Chiyou would set a trap and use Sasuke to subdue him.

“Experience…?”

“Haha, you thought you were hiding well, right? Well, you did hide well. I didn’t expect Chiyou to be the head of Shinobigumi. But you are… selfish.”

“Selfish?”

“Yes. What Shinobigumi needs to hide isn’t ‘Chiyou.’ It’s ‘Shinobigumi’ itself.”

Chiyou looked struck by Leeha’s explanation.

She and Shinobigumi were one and the same; how could she think of them separately?! That was the fundamental difference between Leeha and Chiyou.

“But even so, Leeha – you’ve always been a solo player! And now you’re calling people?”

“This b**** is asking to die-”

“Hyung! Please hold back!”

Chiyou’s rebuttal prompted Hyein to raise his staff, seemingly about to strike her like a club. Kijung barely calmed the unusually excited Hyein.

“Wow, are these ordinary people here? Chiyou, you didn’t show your face during the guild war, so maybe it feels like someone else’s business? It was your idea that almost crushed Byulcho. And yes, I’m a solo player. But that’s my personal choice.”

“Is it different now?”

Chiyou asked, but Leeha didn’t answer. He just smiled.

‘I’ve received a quest, so now I don’t have to treat this as a personal matter.’ It was an official directive from the court of Fibiel. No longer a ‘personal’ matter.

And the composition of the users he called for help? Excluding Bobae, they were practically the biggest victims of Shinobigumi, members of Byulcho.

They too had full grievances against Sasuke and the person who gave orders to him – Chiyou, who nearly ruined their guild.

“So, any more questions? I guess all your last wishes before death are fulfilled, so who should die first? Who wants to die first?”

Leeha raised Black Bass, pointing its muzzle alternately at the completely subdued Sasuke and the perfectly restrained Chiyou.

“…I see. So that’s how it was.”

Chiyou quietly spoke up, her expression quickly changing.

“What’s that? What are you talking about?”

Leeha felt a moment of unease. Was she thinking she could escape this situation? As he thought this, Chiyou was already moving.

Space Grab only immobilizes one’s position, not the body.

“Dance!”

Meaning, she could still dance.

(To be continued…)
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 Swish-swish-swish!

It all happened in an instant. As Chiyou lightly bounced in her fixed spot, five swords materialized in the air. Composed of mana, these swords moved on their own, a kind of psychic and Qi-infused sword dance. Chiyou had once told everyone that she was an ‘assassin’. How could a ‘dancer’ from a class without special weapons perform assassinations? Chiyou’s top-level attack skill cleanly answered that question. For Leeha and his party surrounding her, it was a worst nightmare.

“Damn- what-”

It’s not easy for a ranged dealer to prepare for a sudden close-quarters battle. Especially when the completely subdued opponent suddenly lashes out in desperation! Bobae was momentarily startled, and Chiyou didn’t miss her chance. Two of the floating mana swords swiftly lunged towards Bobae’s abdomen.

“Bobae-ssi!”

Bang!

But by her side was Kijung. Blaming Kijung for rushing to Bobae first would be unjustifiable. After all, they were practically lovers now. However, there were five mana swords in total. Chiyou’s sword dance wasn’t just targeting Bobae.

Three mana swords headed straight for the person who immobilized Chiyou.

“Hyein! Wind Barrier!”

“Tail hyung! Look out!”

Boom!

Mages like Hyein are equally vulnerable in close combat. Hyein rushed to Tail, who used a simple defensive skill, but it was slightly too late. While two swords targeting his chest and belly were barely blocked, his legs were not so lucky. The mana swords completely penetrated Hyein’s thighs, vibrating intensely. By the time the Space Grab released, he was writhing in pain, surrounded by a brief flash of purple.

In just over two seconds, all this unfolded.

“Great job, Sasuke!”

“Heut!”

Sasuke, who had been staring blankly at the ground, suddenly came to life. Was he waiting for this moment all along? But that wasn’t important. What mattered was Chiyou’s sword dance had completely immobilized Byulcho’s members for those precious seconds, enough for Shinobigumi’s agents.

“Leeha!”

“There’s no need to close the distance.”

Leeha had been right next to Sasuke and Chiyou all along. He regretted not pulling the trigger first. He shouldn’t have been intoxicated by victory. He should have blown Chiyou’s head off!

“Damn, even Blaugrunn-ssi-”


“Mutual Destruction!”

Leeha’s left hand threw Blaugrunn. His right hand pulled the trigger.

The gunshot sounded.

Sasuke grabbed Black Bass and Leeha’s arm.

A large hole opened in his chest, quickly turning ashen. But before his body turned completely gray, Sasuke’s body began to swell. The Black Ninja assassin’s secret technique was activated, sacrificing his life to complete the mission.

A giant pillar of fire erupted in the silver plains.

“Phew, Leeha hyung! Leeha hyung!”

“Kijung-ssi?!”

“Bobae-ssi! Step back, further! Don’t come closer until we secure a safe distance!”

“Kijung-ssi is-”

“Get back! Prepare to deal damage from a distance!”

Bobae attempted to grab Kijung’s arm, but he had already pushed her away. Even as the 10th ranked archer, facing the 7th ranked dancer, Chiyou, was a formidable challenge. In a life-or-death fight like this, Chiyou had enough ability to kill Bobae. Kijung’s decision to distance Bobae from Chiyou was crucial.

The situation was equally grim for Tale and Hyein. As a close-combat dealer and a sage, they lacked adequate defensive skills. Caught in the unexpected blast radius, managing their own HP was challenging as they shared potions to create distance.

Amidst the lingering dark smoke, Hyein frowned, realizing the gravity of the situation.

‘Chiyou has such a skill… We could have underestimated her.’ The spatial barrier was still intact, set by Hyein, so Chiyou couldn’t break it. But what if she ran? With her agility, catching her wouldn’t be easy.

Thump… Thump…

“Ahahaha! How dare you act so bravely in front of me? Did you really think you could survive?”

“Uh…?”

Hyein quickly had to change his thoughts. Was Chiyou escaping? Why? That seemed like a move of desperation. Was the situation unfavorable for Chiyou?

‘No, can’t be… she’s planning to defeat us all?’


Chiyou emerged from the smoke, slightly singed and disheveled but with a fierce glint in her eyes.

Changg, changg!

The sound of two potion bottles breaking was enough indication of Chiyou’s relatively stable condition. Moreover, the five floating mana swords testified to her prowess.

‘No, it’s not a ‘maybe’!’

Hyein grimaced, realizing that Chiyou had gained the most from the exchange between Sasuke and Leeha. Could they, including Bobae, Kijung, taeil, and himself, beat Chiyou, who was in the ranking?

“Retreat, Hyein-hyungnim. Focus on shorter casting debuffs. Tale-hyungnim, prepare as if it’s a boss raid.”

“No… this might be tougher than any raid.”

Kijung quickly positioned himself in front. It was a sudden 4:1 situation, but PvP and monster hunting differed, especially in a small-scale elite confrontation.

“You think you can stop me with you guys? Think a ranged dealer like Bobae can hold me back? Tale, with your skills not even touching me? Hyein, you think I can’t deflect your two-second casting trash debuffs?”

Step by step, Chiyou advanced relentlessly, her confidence rooted purely in her abilities, which even the members of Byulcho acknowledged.

‘Damn, if only Leeha hyung was here…’

Kijung swallowed hard, watching Chiyou approach and then opened his friends list, checking on Leeha, who might have been logged out due to Sasuke’s explosion.

“Huh?”

“What’s this ‘huh’? – Wait, what?!”

While Kijung was puzzled, Chiyou suddenly stumbled and fell. Tripping? Even in the dissipating smoke, it was unthinkable for the 7th ranked dancer to lose her balance over a mere pebble.

“What the- What’s this? Get it off!”

『Mongmongmong!』

Strange noises filled the ears of the Byulcho members at that moment. Chiyou, flailing on the ground, gradually became unable to even struggle. Lying there, she twitched like an insect on its back.

“Could it be…”

“That sound…”


Bobae and Hyein’s eyes widened in shock. Beyond Chiyou’s writhing form, a silhouette emerged through the thick smoke.

“Psh, always making things difficult. To think she’d go as far as making Sasuke self-destruct. And that guy, no guts at all, just does whatever he’s told. Are you all soldiers or what?”

The person pushing through the smoke with a scowl was none other than Leeha, whom Kijung had to rub his eyes to believe. It was another moment where the gift from Lord Bahamut, the leader of the Platinum and Metal Dragons, shone through.

“Hyein-ssi, keep the spatial lock tight, will you? Just in case someone tries to summon her out. Make it completely impenetrable.”

“Of course… Of course, I will. Don’t worry.”

Hyein’s demeanor towards Leeha was notably respectful, contrasting with Leeha’s actions upon emerging from the smoke – ruthlessly beating Chiyou with the butt of Black Bass. The Jellypong wrapped around her cunningly loosened only where the musket’s butt landed, adding a level of precision to the beating.

“Kuk, khuh-”

“Ah, that’s a bit relieving.”

How many minutes had he been hitting her? Given that Hyein used the spatial lock twice more, it must have been almost 30 minutes. The necessity of using potions during this prolonged attack made one wonder if it was really needed, but no one, including Kijung, dared to stop Leeha.

“Chiyou.”

“Hu, huh.”

Chiyou could hardly speak. Seeing her react with a flinch at Leeha’s voice, Kijung shook his head, guessing her ‘synchronization rate’ must be high.

“What are you going to do with Shinobigumi now?”

“What do you mean, ‘what to do’?”

“Well, asking this seems pointless. Even if I force you to sign a contract, shinobi-gumi isn’t a specific entity, and I can’t restrict you from making money. You haven’t set up a guild, so you wouldn’t have all your assets in one place.”

Each time Leeha spoke, Chiyou’s face hardened further. She had hoped for the best possible outcome in this situation – to appease Leeha with a superficial contract and end it with a single death. But Leeha wasn’t someone to fall for such tactics.

“Even idiots like Rising-Sun couldn’t completely break through with that method. So, it’s unlikely for a more sophisticated organization like Shinobigumi. I can’t put something like ‘follow my orders for life’ in a contract. And it doesn’t seem like Middle Earth would enforce such restrictions. So, what do you think I’m going to do?”

Leeha squatted in front of Chiyou, his grin devilish.

“What are you going to do?”

“You probably already know. With your intelligence, you should already be aware.”

“Damn it… Are you really going to go through with this? You’re going to do such a thing to me, is that it?”

Chiyou clenched her lips. In fact, the situation was chilling enough to even startle Leeha momentarily. As with the boss of Rising-Sun, when people are cornered, they inevitably beg for mercy with tears and snot. At least, that’s what Leeha had experienced.

‘A real big shot is indeed a big shot. She’s not an ordinary woman. She anticipates what I’m going to do and still doesn’t beg for mercy.’

Of course, chiyouu was glaring daggers, and Leeha knew better than to let such thoughts show. Leeha decided to take an even stronger stance.

“Shh, shhiiii… Let’s not do this. Let’s not show each other such ugly sides after coming this far. Let’s accept the conclusion cleanly. Okay?”

Click, Leeha cocked the hammer of Black Bass.

“And since you already know ‘what’ we’re going to do, you must be prepared, right? You’re probably already whispering to the Shinobigumi here and there… Go ahead. Spill everything you can do. We won’t be sitting idly by either. Right, Kijung?”

“Uh, yeah, that’s right. Former members of Byulcho’s guild also agreed to actively participate. After all, many people still shudder at the mere mention of words like Shinobigumi, Sasuke.”

Kijung nodded. Leeha showed a satisfied expression.

“If you die here, you’ll respawn in ‘Chesi’, a very, very, very small village near the border of Minis. The police force is just 7 people. Hmm. Perfect.”

Hearing Leeha’s words, chiyouu bit her lip even harder, to the point where blood was visible.

This was another thing Leeha had considered while contacting Byulcho.

Leeha didn’t want to end it by just killing Chiyou once. Should an opportunity like this end merely as a reward for completing a quest? Leeha’s answer was NO.

The death of a ranker once can bring significant losses, but it’s still possible to recover.

What Leeha wanted was the complete annihilation of Shinobigumi, an irrecoverable loss.

There was only one way to achieve this.

“Are you prepared to drop out of the rankings?”

Infinite hunting.

Byulcho’s guild members would continuously stay in Chesi. If Chiyou logs in, they’re prepared to PK her within the village without hesitation.

Of course, such a strategy was possible because of Hyein, Bobae, and Leeha. Even if she could log in after 48 hours, she wouldn’t dare to do so easily. If she logs in, she faces substantial actual damage due to death; if she doesn’t, shinobi-kumi loses its overall commander. Either choice is a prison for Chiyou. Leeha’s trap had reached Chiyou. And Black Bass’s bullet would penetrate her from the back of her head.

“Are you ready to fight me to that extent?”

Despite being aware of all these situations, chiyouu, who lifted Black Bass first, was the one to speak.

“What preparation? You’re talking about infinite hunting. And you’re the one who started ‘fighting to that extent’. What are you talking about?”

What else could be left? However, Leeha shook his head. He mustn’t think like that now. Chiyou must be acknowledged as a genius in handling information and manipulating people’s psychology. Even her bravado must be seen as seeking room for negotiation. He must ignore her words. Chiyou has nothing left. There are no more secret weapons! Leeha thought so.

“Okay, Ha Leeha. Then I’ll use everything too.”

“You think I can’t kill you if you say that?”

However, chiyouu did not offer any negotiation to Leeha. Hearing the words ‘infinite hunting’, she sparkled her eyes and only expressed confidence until the end.

“Kill me.”

She did not refuse death.

“Okay, bye-bye.”

Baaaaaaaaang…!

A white radiance emanated from Leeha’s body.

Yet, despite being the executioner, Leeha couldn’t understand why he felt an uneasy premonition.

(To be continued…)
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 “Our Fibiel doesn’t know about this.” 『You have completed the quest.』

『You have leveled up.』

Leeha let out a long sigh as he quietly listened to the quest completion notification, along with the triumphant fanfare sounding ‘pabam-! pabam-!’. The sense of accomplishment made his entire body feel stiff, yet the overwhelming joy didn’t come.

‘That was a really tiring opponent.’

It wasn’t just about being focused. It was about concentrating every nerve, every bit of attention, in the world of Middle Earth during the past days. Thoughts of the days spent struggling to track Chiyou and deal with her, even before he received the quest from the Fibiel Royal Palace, came to his mind. In some ways, he had invested more mental effort than in the Dragon Palace quest.

“Hyung?! If you’ve leveled up, then-”

“Oh, you remember?”

“Of course! You think I wouldn’t care about that?”

It was Kijung who reinvigorated Leeha’s spirits. Seeing his surprised cousin, Leeha suddenly felt like teasing him.

“Why? What is it, Kijung-ssi?”

“Well… I know it might sound absurd to say this now.”

“What’s going on?”

Bobae and Tale urged Kijung to speak. Leeha, already knowing what Kijung was about to say, simply smiled awkwardly, anticipating the reactions of the other members of Byulcho.

“No, actually, it’s something to celebrate. Leeha hyung has finally… finally reached level 200.”

This was what Kijung had realized while witnessing Leeha’s level up.

“What?!”

“200…? Not 300, but 200? I mean, 300 would be impossible, but is it really true? Really level 200?”

Even the serious Tale tilted his head like an owl in surprise. Bobae was so flustered she could barely speak.

“You hadn’t reached 200 yet? What about the New Continent? Did you go there without being level 200? No, wait- Ha Leeha-ssi? 『Buoy』- when you rode that giant turtle- were you not even level 200 then-”

“Ah, back then I was probably not even level 190, maybe.”


“What, what? 190?”

But the most surprised was Hyein. Having played with Leeha in various situations, she knew best about his destructive power. And now he’s only just reached level 200?

Seeing Hyein’s stunned expression, Leeha grinned. His surprise itself was a testament to how much Hyein recognized Leeha.

‘Hmm, so that’s why they started treating me differently from level 200. It wasn’t just randomly assigned.’

In Middle Earth, being recognized as ‘Intermediate or above’ starts from level 200.

Not to mention the rankers, even those known as outsiders are mostly above level 200.

And today, Leeha also learned why.

『Achievement: Possibility of Rising to Fame (B)』

Congratulations! You have finally reached level 200! In the vast world of Middle Earth, you now have the opportunity to widely spread your name. Towards the highest and strongest of Middle Earth! We look forward to your continued dedication.

Reward: 14 Stat Points

『You have reached level 200.』

『Individual stat point efficiency will increase with each level.』

From level 200, the efficiency of each stat point changes per level. Although the change per level is small, it becomes quite noticeable at intervals of 5 or 10 levels.

Besides, this effect, which was not applied to Leeha at 199, is now applicable, so he couldn’t help but feel great.

“Keek.”

“Why? Oh, you saw that achievement? Well, now that I think about it, having that attack power even when the stat effects weren’t good…”

As Leeha chuckled, Kijung also laughed, feeling energized. Among the pleasant feelings, there was a noticeable phrase. 

‘Now you have the opportunity to make your name known?’ Considering all that Leeha had done alone so far, and the various rumors spread during the expedition to the New Continent, the phrasing of the achievement seemed almost cute (?).

Stat points are indeed important, but the decisive effect from level 200, translating each stat point into HP, mP, attack power, evasion, movement speed, etc., was a significant matter.

‘Great, great! And to get such a bonus at this important moment!’


『Achievement: Ranker Hunt (Top 10) – 7th, “Chiyou” (A)』

Congratulations!

You have killed the seventh-highest-level user among the top 10 in Middle Earth. Hopefully, it wasn’t just luck. Be careful, as he might come back to reclaim the ‘Ranker Hunt’ achievement! Take care!

Effect: Temporary 34 Stat Points (retrieved upon death by the target user)

(This achievement does not appear in the Hall of Fame.)

An A-grade achievement for killing one of the top ten tankers. Although it was a temporary stat point that would be retrieved upon death by the user, it was an incredibly rewarding achievement for Leeha.

‘Now that I think about it, among the top ten… I’ve killed Igor, Piotr, Faust, and now Chiyou?’

Killing four out of the ten? Perhaps such news would be widely shared in the community, further enhancing his fame.

‘Of course, that only makes me a target, so it’s better to keep quiet.’

Leeha, feeling the weight of Blaugrunn settling on his head, looked towards Kijung.

“Chiyou kept pretending to have something up her sleeve, but you can handle the rest, right?”

“Ah, hyung. I am the guild master after all, aren’t I? Don’t worry about the rest. I’ll thoroughly bring her downfall, for Bobae-ssi’s sake too.”

“Of course. My range might not be as long as Leeha-ssi’s, but there’s a spot about 570 meters from Chesi village’s starting point. It’s just barely ‘outside’ the village. The police ignore that area, so we plan to target Chiyou there… well, we’ll probably be there for a while.”

Bobae nodded in agreement to Kijung’s words. Apart from the method using Bobae, Kijung had devised various strategies to kill Chiyou and deal with the incoming Shinobigumi agents. A significant number of Byulcho’s members would be gathered in Chesi for a while.

“Indeed… But what do you mean ‘for Bobae-ssi’s sake’- Ah, ah! I see, that’s how it is?!”

“Huh? Leeha-ssi! You really don’t care about me, do you?”

“No, it’s not that-”

What Kijung and Bobae were talking about. If the Byulcho guild conducts infinite hunts on Chiyou and keeps killing her until she falls out of the top ten rankings?

The beneficiaries would be the rankers below her!

Especially Bobae, who is currently barely clinging to the 10th place, would be able to securely rise to the 9th rank!


“Cough, but saying it’s ‘for Bobae-ssi’s sake’ is a bit…”

“Right, Kay. That’s a good point, but shouldn’t it first be ‘for Byulcho’s revenge’ or something like that?”

“Of course, that too, hyung-nim. Hehe.”

Tale and Hyein sighed, and Kijung laughed awkwardly. Leeha thought that the atmosphere of Byulcho was great. A guild master with action and decision-making capabilities, and guild members who can adequately support those aspects where the guild master might lack.

‘And if we gain fame from the infinite hunt of Chiyou, we might really rise to be one of the top guilds in Fibiel. It might take more time, but if Byulcho continues like this, they could definitely secure a place in Fibiel.’

“Then, I’m counting on you, Kijung.”

“Don’t worry. I’m not stupid enough to mess up what hyung has set up.”

“Keek, got it. Then, Tale-nim, Hyein-ssi, Bobae-ssi. See you again.”

Leeha activated his portal crystal. As Tale, Hyein, and Bobae exchanged their goodbyes with Leeha, he and Blaugrunn had already teleported away.

“Stop, please. What brings you here?”

“Um, um. I’ve come to see His Majesty the King and Rotzak, the head of the mages.”

Leeha had arrived at the Fibiel Palace! He had no intention of just settling for two small achievements after all the effort in capturing Chiyou.

As soon as he touched the portal crystal, the guards, who snapped to attention, were halted by Leeha as he entered the palace.

“Leeha-ssi!”

Shin Nara, having been contacted by Bobae, was waiting for him.

“Even with the Medal of Honor and the 『Dignity』 buff, it’s still faster when I’m with Nara-ssi.”

“Of course! My overall and individual affinity are both at 100%. I’m friends with almost all NPCs in the palace!”

Shin Nara beamed with a ‘Did I do well?’ expression and Leeha’s lips twitched in amusement.

Despite being known as a war hero in Fibiel and the personal lord of Gaza City with the 『Dignity』 buff, in the palace, Shin Nara’s influence was more powerful.

It was so cute how proudly she talked about it.

‘Well, she’s always been cute. But, ‘most’ NPCs?’

Leeha suddenly became curious. There were many and varied NPCs wandering around the palace. But for someone like Shin Nara who spent most of her time in the palace, ‘all’ NPCs should be considered friends.

“‘Most’ NPCs mean… there are still NPCs you’re not friendly with?”

“Yes. I even raised my affinity with the Sacred Knights, who are sworn enemies of the guards, but I just can’t seem to get along with the mage division.”

“The mage division?”… Because of Rotzak?”

“Well, that too. Rotzak is really impossible to increase affinity with no matter what you say. And his subordinates in the mage division? They’re so shady. You have to experience it, Leeha-ssi. Officially, it’s a gathering place for prodigies and geniuses with mana talents from all over Fibiel. But the real human relations there, disaster, total disaster!”

As Shin Nara vehemently gossiped(?), Leeha could vaguely understand the mage division. It seems the people under Rotzak, the head, were no less peculiar.

“I’ll pretend I didn’t hear that, dame Shin.”

“Wha-?!”

“Shh!”

Suddenly, the sound of scraping metal startled both Leeha and Shin Nara.

They hastily turned to see a figure cloaked in a dark red robe. The only person who could wear a robe with the mage division’s emblem so prominently displayed was one.

“Lord Rotzak!”

Shin Nara was genuinely startled, and Leeha was no different.

‘No footsteps- There wasn’t even a sound. No magical effect was used either.’

Even though the floor was carpeted, it shouldn’t have muffled the sound completely!- After all, lotzak is a mage. Such stealth, akin to what a skilled assassin might use?

The fact that users of Leeha and Shin Nara’s caliber didn’t notice him was shocking enough. The second shock was the content of their conversation just moments ago.

“There’s no need to mention the Sacred Knights’ character education…”

“I’m, I’m sorry.”

As Shin Nara bowed, lotzak snorted and looked towards Leeha.

“What brings you to seek an audience, Ha Leeha-kun?”

“Please address me as Ha Leeha-nim, lotzak, head of the mages. kun’ seems inappropriate for the etiquette of the royal palace.”

A light revenge for Shin Nara. Before Rotzak could respond, Leeha continued.

“I’ve come to report to His Majesty the King and also to discuss a matter with you, head of the mages.”

“‘Discuss’, you say. With me, the Chief Mage.”

“Well, let’s talk inside. Shall we go?”

Rotzak’s forehead wrinkled at Leeha’s teasing, but he restrained himself from showing further irritation. As Rotzak turned to leave, Leeha showed a small victory sign to Shin Nara.

Unseen by Leeha, lotzak briefly glanced at his bag just before turning away.

Thud-thud-thud!

The King’s audience chamber was knocked upon by the guards, and soon the door opened. After performing a formal greeting appropriate for the royal palace and maintaining cordial relations, Leeha broached the main subject.

“You look pleased.”

“Yes, Your Majesty.”

“Could it be… you’ve succeeded?”

The King was quick to catch on. Rotzak’s expression briefly showed surprise before returning to normal. Leeha noticed this fleeting change.

‘Did Rotzak never even imagine it possible? He probably thought I’d fail the quest he gave me just to trouble me. He never imagined I’d actually succeed.’

Kneeling on one knee, Leeha reported to the King.

“Yes, Your Majesty. Although there are still four days left, I have successfully eliminated the Minis envoy’s Bag of Wisdom. I have also disposed of all her guards, ensuring that no information can be reported back to the Minis’ royal palace.”

Then he turned his gaze towards Rotzak. It wasn’t just his gaze that shifted.

“Regarding the land division in the New Continent, I am confident that Minis will soon request an extension. Now, our ‘proposal’ becomes crucial. I trust the initiator, lord Rotzak, has made the necessary preparations.”

“Ah, yes, that’s right.”

He had even turned the King’s attention! What if Rotzak hadn’t prepared anything, thinking Leeha would fail?

‘Let’s see how you like being on the receiving end.’ Paying back was part of Leeha’s nature.

(To be continued…)
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 “What do you think, mage Chief?”

“That, um, well…”

Rotzak was flustered. It was inevitable. Even an AI NPC can’t accomplish everything. Given the system’s constraints, there are limits to what even he can do. Moreover, given his personal dislike of Leeha, lotzak had intentionally set a tight deadline of ‘7 days’ to ensure Leeha’s failure.

“Surely… you weren’t completely unprepared. Without that woman who seemed to be manipulating the Minis envoy from behind, we could buy time and make a counter-proposal to Minis, as you said.”

“Of course, Your Majesty. But until we can verify this report-”

“It is true, lord Rotzak. I guarantee it in the name of the Sacred Knights.”

“Truly, cough, hm, involved the Sacred Knights? If the involvement of our nationals is exposed-”

“Of course, we did not intervene. However, considering what Ha Leeha-nim has done for our nation, it’s unthinkable that he would lie before Your Majesty. I don’t know what ‘personal feelings’ Lord Rotzak might have, but I suggest not doubting Ha Leeha-nim.”

Leeha:_Nice timing! Nara-ssi, well spoken!

Nara: Do you think dealing with NPCs is easy? When it’s time, I get things done.

Rotzak had no grounds to object. Shin Nara perfectly and justifiably defended Leeha. The King’s nodding head already indicated the conclusion.

“So, what do you say, lotzak?”

Rotzak bowed his head briefly, as did Shin Nara. To see such a cool and cynical NPC flustered was unexpected. Leeha had to avoid looking at him to keep from laughing.

“I have indeed thought about it, Your Majesty.”

“Then speak.”

“However, I cannot easily disclose matters regarding the land division in the New Continent. Our Mage Division is considering various options, and I will inform you before Minis requests an extension or makes a new proposal.”

Rotzak’s voice regained calm. A cunning fox isn’t easily rattled. Especially with his official position as Chief Mage, questioning his confident assertion was difficult. The King had to maintain the dignity of the Wizard Division’s head.

“Very well. Then… Lord of Gaza City.”

“Yes, Your Majesty.”

“Once again, I must highly commend your contributions. We are always grateful for your efforts for Fibiel.”


“It’s an overstatement, Your Majesty. I’ve simply done my best for our nation and you.”

“Hm, hm. Nevertheless, a worthy citizen deserves a reward. Access to select an item from the royal treasury, and… despite the tight schedule and difficult conditions, for your flawless completion of the mission-”

『Unknown to our Fibiel』 Reward: Title – Shadow Hitman

Access to the Fibiel Royal Treasury (Choose 1 item)

Fanfares rang in Leeha’s ears. What could this be? The name sounded impressive, but could it be all show?

“Awarding the title of Shadow Hitman, an unofficial special agent of the royal family.”

As the King finished speaking, a hologram window appeared before Leeha.

『Title: Shadow Hitman (S-)』

Unseen and unheard, fulfill the given mission.

My body is your shadow; no trace can be found from attacks borne of shadows.

Effect: Double additional effect on successful attacks from undetected state

“Whoa…”

Leeha barely held back his thought, ‘Isn’t this a bit much?’ A title specialized in assassination.

The birth of a new special agent, whose existence even the Fibiel Royal Palace denies. Rotzak was trembling.

Only after leaving the King’s audience chamber, Shin Nara asked Leeha.

“Leeha-ssi! What now? Another achievement?”

“No, this time… it’s a title.”

“A title? Eh, that’s a bit… Titles don’t stack, you know! Unless you don’t have any good titles? What rank is it?”

Duplication didn’t matter!

With this title alone, the title of Shadow Hitman, who needs any other title?


“Keek, I’ll keep it a secret!”

“Ah, come on! Tell me! Titles are generally lower than achievements… B+ rank? A- rank?”

“No way, no. I’ll tell you when we meet.”

An S- rank title could have effects equivalent to, or even surpassing, s-rank achievements.

But Leeha was more than satisfied.

Double damage on successful attacks from an undetected state!

‘But isn’t this crazy? Titles like Fearless or other buffs, even the Dark Elf’s Forbidden Rage, were only around 20-30%… This time it’s a multiplier.’

Leeha guessed the ‘undetected state’ condition must be challenging to meet.

Regardless of the assassination target’s strength, the challenge lies in remaining undetected until the final moment of the attack.

‘No, even Petyr, despite his personality, always gets noticed at the moment of attack.’

“If it’s a melee class assassin, it’s practically impossible to meet the undetected condition unless they literally jump out of the shadows. For ranged assassins, the need to close the distance for accuracy or the weapon’s range limit makes it difficult. Given the effect’s improbability, it’s virtually impossible for most professions in Middle Earth. But what about me?”

Leeha realized that for him, it was possible. That was the end of it.

“Even if they want to catch me, they can’t! By the time they hear the gunshot and realize ‘it’s an assassin!’, they’ll already be dead.”

Leeha’s primary sniping range of 1,000 meters almost never led to detection. At that distance, the bullet reaches faster than the sound.

“Why are you laughing to yourself? Must be something really good.”

“No, just… being here with Nara-ssi.”

“What- what- huh?”

“Ah? Huh? What, what did I just say?”

Leeha, who had let his true feelings slip while giggling, saw Shin Nara’s playful movements suddenly freeze. Leeha looked down. So did Shin Nara. She wanted to ask, ‘Were you serious about what you just said?’ But she didn’t. She knew that an embarrassed Leeha would stutter and say, ‘I misspoke!’

Rather than hearing that, she preferred to keep his unguarded words close to her heart.


The joy of besting Rotzak and receiving a powerful title vanished from Leeha’s mind, leaving only blank thoughts.

‘What the heck did I just say? Ah, darn it!’

As they walked in silence to the central palace entrance, Shin Nara finally spoke.

“… When will I see you outside?”

“Ah, outside. Right. Must see you. Yeah. I’ll, um, contact you.”

“Okay, then… see you…”

Shin Nara, without properly saying goodbye, quickly disappeared. Leeha finally breathed a sigh of relief.

“Whew… what was I even doing… Anyway, let’s quickly take care of business. Excuse me, guard?”

“Please speak freely, lord Ha Leeha.”

“Could you call the Deputy Finance Minister Lerik for me? I have something to discuss regarding the royal treasury.”

“Of course, I’ll inform him immediately.”

Even without Shin Nara, Leeha’s 『Dignity』 buff ensured that routine matters could be handled without issue. Shortly after the guard left, nPC Deputy Finance Minister Lerik hurried over. The feeling of being treated well was undeniably pleasant.

“The procedure is the same as last time.”

“Yes, I know. One opportunity! Can’t be changed once chosen, right?”

“Exactly.”

“Ah, by the way… 『Summon: Partner』!”

SWOOSH—

Leeha summoned Blaugrunn, who had been away while he was in the palace. Lerik shielded his eyes from the bright cyan glow emanating in the dim underground.

『Kyuu Kyuu!』

“A… Dragon!”

“Heh, lerik-nim. May I enter with my friend here?”

As Lord of Gaza City, medal of Honor recipient, 『Dignity』 buff holder, and now with a dragon hatchling, Leeha’s request was not something Lerik could refuse.

Leeha and Blaugrunn entered the royal treasury.

Clank, clank, the sound of gold coins being stepped on echoed. Leeha inhaled deeply with a blissful expression.

“Ah, perfect. Treasure is always thrilling.”

『Kyuu Kyuu!』

A fondness for gold and treasures is common among all dragons. Excited, blaugrun fluttered around Leeha. Then Leeha remembered something.

“Wait, there’s Blaugrunn’s lair, right? I’ve never been. When will you take me?”

『Kyuu?』

The five items owed by Blaugrunn! While the items Blaugrunn had brought helped greatly in restoring Gaza City, Leeha had made it clear those were separate from the promised reward. Meaning there was still more to “collect.”

“Oh! Can’t pretend you don’t know!”

『Kyuu… Kyuu?』

“But you’re going to act like that? You understand everything when it comes to food or battle!”

『Kyuu, Kyuu…』

Blaugrunn shook its head, feigning ignorance. When acting like this, there’s no way to communicate. Leeha knew this all too well.

“Fine, maybe you’ll understand when you’re Juvenile-class. But even then, if you pretend not to understand and go ‘Kyuu Kyuu’, we’ll see.”

『Kyuu Kyuu!』

Blaugrunn smiled as Leeha gave up, confirming his suspicion that it understood perfectly.

“Alright, let’s search! This time, our goal is one: the Firewisp Wooden Gloves! Blaugrunn, like this. It should look like a set with my shoes. Find me an item like this, a ‘glove’ filled with mana. Okay?”

『Kyuu!』

Blaugrunn had one reason to be there: to find items more accurately and quickly, to ensure nothing was missed. Determined not to respond even if Bailephus or the platinum dragon Bahamut spoke to him, Leeha began rummaging through the treasure mountain.

(To be continued…)
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 “Am I crazy? Was it too obvious?”

Shin Nara’s quick departure seemed to reflect her inner turmoil. Her focus was narrowed, barely aware of where she was walking.

“Suddenly saying that! Was it deliberate, a test? Maybe… Maybe he does have some feelings for me. Yes, that must be it.”

“Dame Shin, have you finished your business?”

Lost in thought, she barely registered someone calling her. Was that one sentence from Leeha so shocking? It was unprecedented for her to hear such a direct expression of feelings from him.

“Dame Shin?”

“Ah, ah! Sir Syndergaard. Yes? Yes?”

“What were you thinking about? You seem so preoccupied.”

“No, just…”

Her train of thought was interrupted by another member of the Sacred Knights, sir Syndergaard, who had just emerged from the headquarters.

“It looked like you visited Ha Leeha-nim. From your expression, it seems things went well.”

“What?! Ah… Yes, it seems to have gone well. We might see each other soon.”

“Really?”

“No, no, no. What am I even saying…”

Shin Nara was flustered, and Sir Syndergaard smiled knowingly. Given his and Leeha’s 100% affinity with the Sacred Knights, it was impossible for him not to remember Leeha.

“That Ha Leeha-nim, once riding a bear and causing a stir, is now the lord of a city. It’s surprising. He seems to meet the King often too.”

“Yes, lord Ha Leeha is certainly no ordinary person.”

Shin Nara nodded at Syndergaard, her bright eyes conveying her sincerity even to an NPC.

“I’ll continue my patrol, dame Shin.”

“Take care, sir Syndergaard.”


After Syndergaard left, Shin Nara entered the headquarters of the Sacred Knights, her heart fluttering with anticipation.

“I wonder when we’ll meet. Maybe next weekend? I should contact him first.”

Unbeknownst to Shin Nara, Leeha and Kijung would be departing somewhere else during ‘that week.’ For now, she only looked at the world with a hopeful, happy gaze.

『kyuu kyuu!』

“Did you find it?!”

『kyuu, kyuu!』

“Where, where?”

Clank, clank!

Leeha kicked aside gold coins as he rushed to Blaugrunn.

They had been in the royal treasury for over an hour and twenty minutes. Despite having a clear target, finding the desired item in the disorganized pile was challenging.

『kyuu…』

Blaugrunn grunted, pulling out an item and flying towards Leeha. Considering Blaugrunn’s assistance, it would have taken much longer to find the item without it. The item in Blaugrunn’s small hand was a long glove that could cover the entire forearm. It was made of dark Brown leather, somewhat stiff to the touch.

“Yet, the fingers are different. The thickness and finishing are distinct.”

It was evidently a high-quality item, even without reading the description. Leeha took it from Blaugrunn.

『kyuu kyuu?』

“Yes, well done. Good job.”

Leeha petted Blaugrunn, who seemed to ask, ‘Did I do well?’ He then opened the item’s detail window.

『Legendary Gloves of the Firewisp Tree』

Defense: 1,600

Effects: Agility +27, skill – Joint Fixation: Upper Limb


Requirements: Strength 100 or more, agility 2,000 or more

Description: Gloves once worn by a legendary archer. Known for shooting an apple off his son’s head from 1km away. His unwavering posture, like a great tree, fascinated the continent. Witnesses claimed to have seen branches and leaves sprouting from his knees, ankles, elbows, shoulders, supporting him, but no evidence was found.

“Ha, ha, ha… Perfect.”

The gloves’ defense was slightly lower than the boots, but the added agility was two points higher. Not that these stats mattered.

“What matters is that I got them! I don’t care if the defense is zero or if it only adds one point of agility! This is what I needed!”

Leeha sought this item for one reason: the 〈Joint Fixation: Upper Limb〉 skill!

『Joint Fixation: Upper Limb』

Description: “Draw mana from the earth, feel it crossing your shoulders and arms… Now’s the time.”

Effect: Increases shooting range by 25%, mana: 250

Duration: Until released, cooldown: 30 minutes

“Hmm?! Ouch…”

『kyuu kyuu?』

“No, it’s good. Just thought the penalty might be around 30%.”

Wearing the gloves and checking the skill window, Leeha wasn’t entirely satisfied. The “Joint Fixation: Lower Limb” skill provided a massive 30% increase in range, but at the cost of immobility – a harsh penalty. However, the gloves didn’t have any such drawbacks.

In Middle Earth, where every action has a reaction, it’s impossible to have an incredible effect without some penalty.

“Still, even without any penalty, a 25% increase seems overpowered… but I can’t help feeling a bit disappointed.”

『kyuu…』

“No, no. Actually, this is more than enough. Maybe there’s another item that increases range somewhere. Upgrading the Sniper skill is crucial too. I’m still at level 9 of the Sniper’s skill; just one more level up to Expert should make a big difference.”

Leeha remembered when his Sniper skill reached the Skilled level, increasing the range percentage. Now, just one more level-up to Expert would boost the maximum percentage again.

“If Skilled level gave 40%, expert should offer at least 50%, right? Plus, 30% from Joint Fixation: Lower and 25% from Upper…”


As he did the simple math, Leeha’s smile grew.

“Not enough? Far from it!”

“Ahaha! I was disappointed I couldn’t level up my Sniper skill during the voyage to the New Continent. I need to focus on leveling up the skill for a while. Shall we go, blaugrun?”

『kyuu kyuu!』

Blaugrunn’s mood improved with Leeha’s smile. Leeha confirmed his item choice with Lerik and left the Fibiel Royal Treasury.

Next was testing the new gloves. Leeha thought of a large, noticeable monster that came to mind.

“Ugh, Jellypong! Stretch over that rock for me.”

SWOOSH-

An arm extended from Leeha’s vest, grabbing onto a rock and pulling him up.

“Should have climbed this way from the start.”

『kyuu kyuu!』

“You say that because you can fly, blaugrun. I’m agile and have a bracelet that increases my jump, but climbing is still hard.”

Leeha grumbled, looking at Blaugrunn, who seemed to be mocking him. But it was no easy feat. What Leeha was doing wasn’t mere climbing; it was more akin to rock climbing a steep and rugged mountain without any safety gear.

“Of course, it’s hard. They designed the mountain to complicate things, especially since no other monsters appear here. It’s a challenging spot, meant to slow down players’ movements.”

Reaching the top of the mountain, where three men could barely stand, Leeha settled into a kneeling position – the best stance for precision in such a cramped space. He attached a stabilizer and finally used the skills.

“Joint Fixation: Lower Limb and Upper Limb.”

Rustle, rustle, rustle…

Dark Brown or greenish mana roots sprouted from his shoes and gloves, wrapping around his body. Blaugrunn looked on in surprise.

『kyuu?!』

“It’s okay.”

Mana vines rooted his legs to the ground, wrapping around his knees, calves, and ankles, and his elbows, shoulders, and wrists, making it look like they were trying to fill up his armpits too. The sight of Leeha, covered in mana vines except for his head, was quite solemn.

『kyuu kyuu kyuu!』

“Don’t laugh!”

Though the sight was somewhat comical, Leeha focused on the task. He raised Black Bass to his eye, peering through the scope at a distant, wriggling gray mass. The moving targets were stone golems, challenging to identify due to their protective color blending with the surroundings.

Leeha knew that even with the scope at maximum magnification, it only felt like observing with the naked eye from a distance of 130-140 meters.

“Hitting a human-sized target from here would be near impossible unless it’s stationary. Moving targets? Out of the question.”

But then he thought of an NPC capable of such a feat, the “Arcane Sniper.”

He wondered about Luger, who had gone to find this NPC.

“Hope he doesn’t get his head blown off. What was he thinking?”

Leeha took a deep breath and focused. It was time to see the full potential of his new skills and equipment.

(To be continued…)
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 At first glance, it might have looked like a Wood Golem or an Ent, and just as Leeha had that thought, a new color appeared in his scope.

A monster possessing color in the entirely gray rock mountain range.

“It’s been a while, brass Golem.”

Leeha smiled.

The reason he had trudged all the way up here was precisely because of this creature.

It’s easy to recognize, huge in size, and slow in movement. Although it sometimes moves, it has the restriction of having to stop for several seconds to use its ‘Stomp’ skill.

‘Perfect for practice!’

Leeha adjusted the click.

He had already set it for a distance of about 4km, but it needed to be more precise.

At this distance, even a 1mm deviation from the barrel can mean missing the target entirely.

‘First and foremost, distance measurement is crucial. The Brass Golem’s size is… well over 10m. Based on that size… proportionally, it’s around 4,025m, 4,030m. Quarter click adjustment… target moving…’

The Brass Golem was moving. Leeha couldn’t hear its heavy footsteps. Now, he had to adjust the click-by-quarter units. Very finely. Delicately.

‘Ignore wind direction and speed. Firing angle good, visibility good, target acquisition complete… click adjustment according to movement.’

Leeha suddenly felt grateful that ‘Joint Fixation: Upper’ didn’t restrict the movement of his arm.

If it had fixed him in one position, making adjustments would be impossible, and the sniping would undoubtedly have failed.

‘Thanks to the Middle Earth development team’s consideration… 『Snipe』.’

The barrel of the Black Bass flashed.

With the skilled snipe and the addition of ‘Joint Fixation: Lower’, Leeha knew his maximum shooting range.

The Brass Golem was still moving. One step, two steps, three steps… Underneath, the figure of Yujay rising was visible. The Brass Golem’s characteristic? Probably using the Stomp skill, raising its fist and slamming it down. It would have to walk down a bit more.

Leeha aimed at the anticipated spot and steadied his breath. Then, another click adjustment. The users arrived. Warriors charged in, and mages began casting something. He shouldn’t be distracted.


There was only one thing to focus on right now. His own shot.

Baaaaaang—!

Even as Leeha exhaled, his chest did not rise or fall. He waited until he had expelled all his breath and felt utterly empty inside. His body, already tightly constrained by external forces, seemed to lock up from within, stopping even the smallest movement. Click. Then, at that moment, he pulled the trigger. It took approximately 4.82 seconds for the bullet to shatter the chest of the Brass Golem over 4,023 meters away.

Boom! Beep!

The fanfare slightly baffled Leeha, but he couldn’t afford to pay attention to the notification window now.

The users who hastily formed a raid party for the Brass Golem raid could never understand why the Golem died or why they couldn’t loot it. The sound of the gunshot, carried by the wind, was quieter to them than the sound of stepping on gravel.

‘I hit it… Haha… I did.’ Leeha laughed for various reasons, not just because he hit the target.

‘Where it hit’ was very important in this particular sniping, and Leeha had a chance to test the first limit of Black Bass.

‘The energy is enough. It hit exactly where I aimed.’

He aimed at the head, but the chest was hit.

He initially targeted the largest area to prevent issues like bullet drop, and it hit exactly where he aimed.

It wasn’t about calculating the drop over distance; it was about hitting the target precisely at 4,000 meters, meaning the bullet trajectory didn’t collapse.

Using black powder and steel balls for long-distance sniping, adjusting the barrel while shooting, it meant that sniping over 4,000 meters was certainly possible.

‘It’ll get harder due to the click adjustment limit, but up to 5,000 meters should be almost certain.’

The one regret was the scope. Despite being over-technology in the Middle Earth world, it was still insufficient compared to what Leeha aimed for.

“Ugh, I’ll have to check if there’s any scope-related item at the Vatican. Right?”

『Kyu?』

“Before that, it’d be nice if there was something worth getting in Blaugrunn’s lair. When are you going to take me there?”

『■』

Blaugrunn tilted its head cutely, looking at Leeha.


Leeha chuckled and shook his head.

“Alright, alright. We’ll see when we can communicate. But what’s this achievement about?”

『Achievement: Challenger of Limits (B+)』

Congratulations! You have hit a target over 3,000 meters away! You are no longer ‘ordinary’! Even Brown, a musketeer of the Fibiel Kingdom who hit a target at 2,475 meters, would applaud you. Now, as a human, there’s only one record left to break!

Reward: Agility +15

You are the first to register in the 『Challenger of Limits』 achievement.

The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with the original effect being amplified by 200%.

Effect: Agility +30

“Ah! A distance achievement! Right, ever since I started using Black Bass – Eh, wait? Why is Brown mentioned here?”

The achievements for hitting targets at different distances have changed since the black powder era.

Was it because he hadn’t sniped for a while, or because the last time he did a long-distance snipe was around 2,500 meters? Leeha had completely forgotten about it.

And today, with his successful 4,000-meter snipe, a delightful alarm rang after a long time. However, the content of the achievement left Leeha feeling a bit unsettled.

‘Was that the best record Brown of 『Pierce』 had?’

Pierce at 2.5km…

During the voyage to the new continent, Luger had indeed shown considerable skill. However, Leeha knew that hitting a target at 2.5 km was not within Luger’s capabilities.

“No, even with such growth, I still haven’t caught up to the old trio? And this achievement, ‘Challenger of Limits’ – sounds grand but it’s just B+ grade? Considering the difficulty, it should be S grade!”

Leeha grumbled as he closed one of the notification windows.

After the second alert, Leeha had a rough idea of what the second achievement might be. There was an achievement for 2,000m, and now he had achieved the 3,000m one, so the other one was quite predictable.

『Achievement: Unreachable Distance (A-)』

Congratulations! You have hit a target over 4,000 meters away! In the long history, no one has ever reached a distance of 4,000m! The most outstanding shooter in the recorded history of musket shooting, a former musketeer of the Fibiel Kingdom, elizabeth, who held the record of 3,450m, has been surpassed by you! Now, the only battle left is with yourself! Or perhaps, a battle with beings beyond humans!


Reward: Agility +16

You are the first registrant of the 〈Unreachable Distance〉 achievement.

The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with the original effect being amplified by 200%.

Effect: Agility +32

“Of course, 4,000m… But this time it’s Elizabeth? Wow…

3,450m hit record. Indeed, the NPC named 『Hit』 had more skills than those of 『Pierce』. So, hitting a target at 4,000m, what about Leeha?

‘I’m better -… that’s not the point, is it?!'”

Just as his mood was about to lift, Leeha read the implications in the achievement description.

What did all those qualifiers before Elizabeth’s record mean!

“Muskets in shooting… while also being an ‘officially measured record’…

What defines a musket? Is what Leeha currently using, the 『Legendary Black Bass』, considered a musket? Of course not. At least not until he deactivates the current SASR skill!

That means Elizabeth shot over 3,000m with a musket using black powder, right?

Not in a normal hunt or urgent situation, but in a ‘formal measurement record’ setting, like in a shooting competition.

“… Snipers have no face to save.”

『Kyu?』

“Ha… Crazy, really. Seeing this, Luger and Brown are hardly any different, huh? How am I supposed to catch up with Elizabeth?”

Could he hit 3,450m with a musket?

Confidently, Leeha could say it’s impossible. How much black powder would that require?

Even compressing it as much as possible, extending the range with all available skills, it’s doubtful whether he could even reach 3,000m.

‘Let alone 3,000, I’m not even sure about Brown’s 2,475m. No, but Brown must have used something other than a musket. That’s nonsense…’

『Kyu-uu, Kyu-uu.』

Blaugrunn patted Leeha’s shoulder comfortingly.

The thrill and excitement of hitting 4,000m, the anticipation that Black Bass’s maximum range was even further, the confidence that with an improved scope he could achieve anything, all were crushed in an instant.

“I should raise my stats and log out. I’m drained. Character window!”

Name: Ha Leeha/ Race: Human

Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 200 (5%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 128

HP: 6,460(4,522)

MP: 1,600

Stats: Strength 551 (+466)

Agility 3,300 (+1,234)

Intelligence 190(+139)

Stamina 228(+135)

Spirit 65(+55)

Remaining Stat Points: 78

Upon opening the character window, Leeha realized just how fickle humans can be. The joy of the 4,000m success was instantly overshadowed by the achievements, but seeing the stats gathered in the character window, he found himself cheered up again!

“Ahem.”

『Kyu?』

“No. I’m not laughing because I’m happy, so don’t stare at me. It’s embarrassing.”

『Kyu-kyu? ^?』

As the corners of Leeha’s mouth turned up, blaugrun playfully poked his cheek a couple of times. Leeha felt a bit embarrassed to have his true feelings discerned by a dragon that was only at hatchling level.

‘Well, I do have 20 bonus stats for being below level 100. Plus, the stats from level-up achievements and the Chiyou assassination achievement…’

The difference between levels 199 and 200 is just a single level numerically, but such a significant change can happen only in Middle Earth.

Even excluding the Chiyou assassination achievement, the difference of 34 stat points can arise from just one level increase.

Now, Leeha was entering the level where the rate of various effects based on stats would be applied differently, which was certainly a reason to smile.

‘Even if the agility stat is the same, the effect at level 199 and 200 is different. No need to think twice, I’ll put all 78 points into agility!’

Leeha’s agility was now 3,461.

He knew that without a round number, nothing special would happen, so he didn’t have high expectations.

He was merely curious.

‘Blaugrunn grows through feeding. Koma will also need some kind of significant event apart from feeding to grow… The only thing directly related to my growth is this little guy.’

『Mong-Mong?』

“Ha, you know when it’s about you, huh? Jellypong, when will you grow?

When does Jellypong grow? A single stat point of 3,400 is by no means low. And Drake said Jellypong grows in proportion to the user’s growth. What exactly is that criterion?

“Is it just that it gets damage proportional to my stats and that’s considered growth? Hmm, I’m sure he hinted at a physical change too… Sigh. Just like with Elizabeth’s case, I still have a long way to go.”

『Kyu-kyu!』

『Mong-mong-mong*』

“Ah well, thinking ahead only tires me out. Let’s go! I still have a lot to receive! I’ll find out when the time comes.”

The road ahead might be long, but there are plenty of assured rewards that can shorten it. With mixed feelings of both satisfaction and dissatisfaction, Leeha logged out.

(To be continued…)
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 From the time he began preparing the ‘Double Edge Shot’ to counter Chiyou, to the moment he actually caught up to her and was ready to assassinate her, Leeha had been moving almost non-stop.

Of course, this was also true when he demonstrated a fantastic snipe of 4,000m to the Brass Golem after receiving the royal palace rewards.

Therefore, it was inevitable that his fatigue had accumulated to a significant extent. To the point that he almost needed to sleep for nearly two days.

“Being sleepy even after sleeping… is this what it means. Ahhhh…”

Leeha, with his hair a mess like a magpie’s nest, rustled as he got up and started moving. He had slept for over 20 hours, but one day was not enough to completely rid him of his fatigue.

“Even after logging out, I was only searching for information related to scopes… Hmm. Anyway, it’s a big problem.”

The scope required for sniping over 4,000m had become essential equipment, and there were no more reference materials left for it. This was because the long-range sniping scope Leeha already possessed was a direct implementation of real-world technology.

“Now, it seems I really have to create a scope using only the technology of Middle Earth. What would come out if I shake Bottleneck-ssi like catching a mouse? Or… do I have to search the New Continent again? Since I know the structure of the scope, if I can find materials or items to enhance those aspects, it seems like it could work out somehow.”

What items to use, and how to apply them?

The basic framework would not be much different from the current scope Leeha was using. However, Leeha could not confidently answer what to test with in detail.

“Thanks to the ‘Joint Fixation’ set skill, the increase in range is great, but… it’s depressing that I can’t see beyond that range.”

Leeha opened two packets of mixed coffee and moved to his computer. Before connecting to Middle Earth, checking for new information every day had become a habit.

“Hmm… there’s almost no talk about Chiyou. Well, the access restriction just got lifted, I suppose.”

In a place like the internet where conversations openly spread, there was unlikely to be frequent mention of the secret information organization led by Chiyou. Most mid-level or lower users wouldn’t even know the existence of the Shinobigumi.

“It’s only been one death, so there’s no change in the rankings… If Chiyou gets eliminated, who will be the new entrant in the top ten?”

Leeha was certain. Byulcho’s grudge was not to be taken lightly. They would invest their time and opportunity cost, ensuring to kill Chiyou at least three times.

That’s only if Chiyou delays her login, but if she carelessly continues to log in, she might die five times, maybe even ten.

“In other words, a ranking drop is a foregone conclusion. Among those who will benefit is the current 11th-ranked user.”

Being in the top 100 of Middle Earth already allows one to make a name, but the power of being in the top 10 is on a different level.

The person who might feel this the most is naturally the one who narrowly missed entering the top 10. Leeha knew who the 11th-ranked user was.


While looking at the official ranking of Middle Earth, Leeha checked the user in 11th place.

The first thing that caught his eye was the nationality!

“Phew, it’s Fibiel. An American.”

To Leeha, the real-world nationality was secondary, as what mattered most to him was what happened inside Middle Earth.

“The nickname is Prea. Alias ‘White Snow Spirit’. Wow, look at that cool nickname. By the way, all the rankers have powerful nicknames. Don’t I have something like that? I should be somewhat famous by now.”

Alexander with the nickname ‘The Great’, Lee Jiwon with the indifferent and chic -in Leeha’s view, undoubtedly deceiving everyone- ‘So easy’, Ram Hwajung the ‘Ice Witch’, Bobae the ‘Bow Beauty’ and so on, all had nicknames that showcased their identity.

“Even Luger has the nickname ‘Warmonger, war Mercenary, dragon Slayer.’… But seeing ‘Sleeping Kidd’, I think it’s better not to have one.”

The only thing to comfort (?) Leeha was the Three Musketeers!

Thinking of Kidd’s nickname, Leeha chuckled as he approached the Middle Earth connection device. A light flickered briefly on his smartphone.

“A message? Who could it be?”

Leeha knew better than anyone that he had no one to contact him.

At most, it would be people he could meet anytime in Middle Earth, so there was especially no need for messages or texts.

Leeha checked his smartphone, unable to hide his surprise. It was a contact from Shin Nara.

“Do you have time next weekend… Next week?”

Leeha immediately checked the calendar. Today was already Saturday. Exactly one week from now?

“Damn it… Of all times!”

It’s the departure date for Hong Kong. I should have met earlier! What should I do, Leeha pondered hard as he logged into Middle Earth.

***

“So, are you saying that Minis has withdrawn their proposal?”

“That’s right. Dame Shin. As I predicted, that woman was scheming Minis’s strategy from behind. His Majesty is also pleased.”


“Hmm, it was Ha Leeha-nim who killed that woman.”

“It’s more important to find out. Execution can be done by anyone, dame Shin knows that, I believe.”

Rotzak showed a smile. Shin Nara lightly nodded her head with a ‘tsk’.

“Then, how will the territorial division among countries be handled in the New Continent?”

“Of course, we’re not just sitting on our hands. What we’ve proposed is a joint administration city. Using the mana relay towers as a basis, we plan to build a fortress-like city, where administrators from each country will be dispatched for joint management. In other words, 4 lords managing one city.”

“Such… administrative waste-”

“Exactly. Now that Minis’s proposal has been crushed, we need to bring about such administrative waste… to seize the initiative. Opportunities often arise from crises, after all.”

Once the conversation, neither informal nor formal, ended, lotzak’s lips curled into a half-smile.

Even from their manner of speaking, the relationship between Rotzak and Shin Nara was evident.

The role of a Mage Squad’s Chief isn’t just to cast protective magic on the palace and lead the magic battalion in war.

As one of the smartest NPCs, he also plays a role in proposing agendas for major national affairs.

Shin Nara, already aware of the facts, could only reconfirm Rotzak’s intelligence.

‘Indeed, a distasteful NPC. Someone who can execute a plan that inflicts 100 damage on the enemy country without flinching at the 50 damage it causes to his own country.’ Theoretically, there’s nothing wrong with it.

To win, one must not shy away from any means or methods. But still, it was a proposal that was hard to accept emotionally.

“When Ha Leeha-kun – no, lord Ha Leeha – arrives, please convey this fact. Even after the joint administration city in the New Continent is established… I’m counting on you.”

Rotzak moved down the corridor with a smooth motion, like stepping on clouds.

Having heard everything from Rotzak, Shin Nara still couldn’t bring herself to trust him completely.

‘On the same side, but I have to start by doubting whether what he says is true… Sigh.’

If it’s all true, would this proposal actually benefit Fibiel? Was the king really satisfied? Although a special envoy from Minis came, Shin Nara couldn’t attend this time.

The special envoy from Minis demanded strict confidentiality.


With Chiyou gone, they likely wanted to hide their disadvantaged situation as much as possible.

Therefore, the negotiation was conducted entirely by NPCs including the king, lotzak, the captain of the guard, and Minis’s special envoy, and Shin Nara, who was waiting outside, could only hear about the results now.

She couldn’t just not talk about it. After all, Middle Earth is a game, and there’s a fundamental rule that ‘at least one player should get a hint.’

‘I should inform Leeha-ssi about this first-‘

Leeha: Nara-ssi!

Nara: Ah! Leeha-ssi! I was just about to contact you!

Leeha: Oh? Really? Ha, did telepathy work?

Nara: Telepathy, how childish.

Whispering childishly, Shin Nara bowed her head even though Leeha couldn’t see her expression, feeling embarrassed nonetheless.

Leeha: Ah, it’s not that. It’s about the message you left. I have to go to Hong Kong that day…

Nara: Oh my? Hong Kong?

Leeha: Yes. With Kijung — Wow, that sounds fun! Why Hong Kong? Disneyland? I heard it’s a good time to visit. Or is it for shopping?

Nara: That, no, it’s like… well, shopping might be a part of it, but– Yes, yes, right. I think I heard it from Bobae. Kijung said he’d be going to Hong Kong soon. So, it’s with you. How many days and nights?

Leeha: Uh, well… actually, it’s at Ram Hwayeon’s invitation.

Shin Nara’s eyes widened momentarily, but soon she exhaled with a ‘hmm’, not feeling anxious or depressed as she once would have been.

Nara: Hmm, I see. Ram Hwayeon, huh… Okay, have fun Leeha: Ah, yes.

Nara: Oh, I wanted to contact you about the special envoy from Minis who visited. About what happened…

Shin Nara relayed to Leeha what she heard from Rotzak.

Not just the objective facts, but also her own judgment on Rotzak’s expressions and actions, which would be of great help to Leeha.

Leeha: I see. Well, first, the paleos in the vicinity will need to be cooperative. Managing them will be one of the main tasks for the lords dispatched from each country.

Nara: It seems so. Anyway! I need to head back to headquarters now! We’ll whisper again next time!

Leeha: Ah, okay.

Shin Nara’s voice was bright.

To Leeha, it seemed odd that she wasn’t disappointed, considering how her hopes were dashed. And there was another reason for the slight smile in her voice.

Nara: Bobae!

Bobae: Oh, Nara.

Nara: What are you doing next Saturday? You have a passport, right?

Was it because she had been tormented too much by Petyr, the insane clown of Surprise, that her character seemed to have changed a bit towards startling others? Of course, this was something Leeha could never have imagined in his dreams.

“Hmm, I’m glad Nara-ssi seems so cheerful, but it also makes me anxious.”

『Kyukyu?』

『Mongmongmong…』

“Even Blaugrunn and Jellypong feel that way? Don’t lie. You two – no, you two beings – have been lying more these days.”

Leeha chuckled to himself.

It was amusing how the dragon and the essence of a water spirit seemed to agree with everything he said, nodding and responding.

As the sound of hammering echoed from the end of the street, Leeha reminded himself of his purpose.

“Bottleneck-ssi!”

“Ah, isn’t it the busy lord? Damn, when are you going to pay for those explosives you took last time?”

“Ugh, a demand for payment as a greeting. And wasn’t that a gift from ‘Chief Engineer’ for my lordship’s inauguration? Like a congratulatory gift for my appointment.”

“Ha, nonsense! Look, I’ve been pushing a lot of minerals lately, so I’m actually quite comfortable, but transactions must be clear! You – no, your lordship promised to pay.”

“Alright, alright. I’ll tell Paytor to pay immediately. Ah, but I came today for something else.”

Bottleneck’s sidekicks, the Beard Brothers, also approached, swallowing dryly.

The other worker dwarves were indifferent to Leeha’s presence, but the three dwarves who had been with him from the beginning were a bit different.

Especially when Leeha started saying things like ‘it’s not that.’

“What kind of… ridiculous request are you going to make this time?”

“Um, no, this time it’s a sensible request. Actually, you’ve made one before.”

“What, what is it?”

Leeha pulled out the Black Bass. With skilled hands, he detached the scope attached to the rail. After blowing off the dust, he handed the scope to Bottleneck with a smile.

“I want to change this… for a better one.”

“… What?”

“You know we need improved materials. You already know the basic structure of a scope. So, what materials are needed, what performance they offer, which parts require what materials, and how much and in what quantity? Please calculate that for me.”

If real-world information can no longer be used, this was the only way left.

“… This is going to drive me crazy. I won’t be able to do anything else for a while.”

“But you stay here because it’s more profitable, right? How long will it take to understand the structure and run simulations? Oh! The performance should be about twice that of the current one. And the size must remain the same.”

Using the information within Middle Earth. That too, with the touch of an expert.

“You think it’s easy? The same size but double the performance? If it were that simple-”

“It’s not simple, that’s why I’m entrusting it to you, Bottleneck. I’ll push a lot of rare minerals your way, so please? Okay?”

And for such tasks, easily said as ‘grinding engineer NPCs’, the most familiar user in Middle Earth would be Leeha.

Bottleneck sighed deeply as if the ground were sinking.

“I’m tied to a devil, tied to a devil…” he muttered a sound that reached Leeha’s ears. It couldn’t be helped. It was meant for him to hear.

(To be continued…)
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 “Hmm, hmm, hmm. Madam, hi!”

“Oh my, our lord, you seem to be in a very good mood today.”

“Yes. A task that seemed difficult turned out to be quite easy.”

It was easy, at least for Leeha. The difficult part would be for Bottleneck.

Of course, Leeha knew that too. Once Bottleneck found a certain level of value, it would ultimately be his job to personally search for the corresponding materials.

‘Anyway, that ‘value’ calculation is the hardest part. It’s not like you can just run an Excel a few times and get the answer.’

A scope with a maximum magnification of over 50 times would be at the level of top-grade binoculars. To implement technology of that size into a scope to be mounted on a sniper rifle? It requires more than just one or two calculations. It’s not something you can easily figure out just by tinkering with a calculator.

‘But this isn’t reality; it’s Middle Earth. Heh heh.’

There’s no doubt that the laws of physics will be cleverly twisted to somehow make it happen. That’s what Leeha thought.

“Anything new lately?”

“What new could there be? Our lord handled the Shinobigumi matter well… Nowadays, extracting information from Minis has become much easier. Thanks to that, the quality of information sent to the palace has improved, and the capital branch has gotten quite busy, my sister told me.”

Madame Ju smiled softly. Her attitude towards Leeha was friendlier than before. Why would the officially recognized Intelligence Guild of Fibiel suddenly become so friendly to Leeha?

Of course, Leeha himself knew why. It was partly their responsibility.

“Phew, it wasn’t easy. Who would have thought they’d be setting traps there? I, I almost died.”

Who was it that informed Leeha about Chiyou being in the Silver Plains? It was the information network of Holy Grill. Indeed, Chiyou was there, but Holy Grill only knew one thing and was unaware of the other. It was because of that ‘one thing’ missed by Holy Grill’s information network that Leeha almost faced a deadly crisis.

‘Well, I survived because I had predicted that Chiyou wouldn’t show up in that way… But still, it was really a close call.’

If Leeha had been just a bit less sharp, just a bit more naive, he might have really fallen for the Shinobigumi’s trick.

He could have been killed by Chiyou, and the secret quest received from Rotzak and the king would have failed, leading to a plummet in royal affinity.

Ju knew well what Leeha was talking about and had no words to retort to such probing.

“I’m really sorry about that. There were parts we just couldn’t know…”


“Right, right. How could we know everything 100%? I was just… disappointed. Even the Holy Grill, managed by Madam Lu and Madam Ju, known as the strongest information guild of Fibiel, couldn’t read the moves of the Shinobigumi managed alone by Chiyou.”

It wasn’t a thoughtless complaint, nor was he asking for compensation.

However, Leeha’s tone, subtly scratching at their pride, was not at all friendly. Normally, Ju would have snapped back, but now she could only sigh in response.

“Well, it’s a thing of the past. It’s not like it changes the relationship between you and me, right?”

“Yes? Ah, that, of course. It should… I appreciate you thinking that way.”

“So, I wanted to ask a few things. Nothing as difficult as the Shinobigumi stuff! Without their interference, it should be much easier. Can you help?”

Leeha showed a refreshing expression.

Giving Ju a sense of guilt and indebtedness? Naturally, it was to obtain the latest information for free.

‘How unfair it is that I still haven’t received a single tax from the thriving Holy Grill.’

Every time he asked something, he had to give huge tax benefits, which was particularly annoying for Leeha.

“Cough, alright. What information do you want?”

“I’m not sure if you would know this… But the Vatican has a treasure vault, right?”

“Yes, that’s right.”

“I think I might need to enter that treasure vault.”

“Oh! The reward for the New Continent expedition? I know about it. The auction house area was bustling because of that recently.”

“That, really?”

It was news to Leeha.

But almost all the members of the New Continent expedition, except Leeha, had already received their Vatican rewards, so it made sense.

Some users had received items that were perfect for them, while others had obtained items that were literally ‘money-makers’ and put them up for auction.

Of course, the amounts were beyond imagination, and even those who couldn’t buy them crowded the auction house area to see the items’ performance, leaving no room to even step in for a while.


“Ah, I was curious too. To think that in the meantime, you were busy with Chiyou. No, that’s not the important part.”

Leeha shook his head and looked back at Ju. There was one thing he currently wanted to know.

“Is there an item in the Vatican’s treasure vault that would suit me?”

In other words, he was utilizing the information guild NPC’s system for an ‘item search’ feature! This time, even if he could bring Blaugrunn, he would still have to search everything regardless. He wasn’t seeking a specific item, but rather something that was either the best or had the highest utility.

In short, even bringing Blaugrunn wouldn’t be much help. Naturally, if he knew something in advance, it would be advantageous.

“Hmm… For the current Leeha-nim, you say?”

“Yes.”

Ju leaned her elbows on the table, resting her chin on her hands.

Her face, showing interest, was brushed by her slender fingers, tapping lightly. To Leeha, it looked like she was typing on a keyboard.

‘Is she searching?’

As the head of the information guild, an NPC, she could fully activate her permissions. This would allow her to recognize all of Leeha’s current statuses and find the most suitable items for him.

“We can’t know everything that’s in each country’s treasure vaults. Even for Fibiel’s vault, we can’t fully grasp its contents, let alone other countries.”

“Of course.”

“But… I have heard a rumor.”

“A rumor? What kind?”

“In the deepest part of the Vatican, there are two items that… perhaps our lord would desire the most. At least, I don’t think the members of the New Continent expedition chose those items.”

“Two items? How do you know what I want?”

“Who knows? I don’t. So you’ll have to make the choice. Where you put more emphasis… That’s all I can tell you.”

Ju spoke almost like an oracle.

Leeha was momentarily stunned, then quickly shook his head.


“Wait a minute! You have to at least tell me the names and appearances of those items!”

“That is…” Ju whispered into Leeha’s ear. The names, appearances, and functions of the items.

That’s when Leeha realized.

‘The system of Middle Earth… delves deeper into the user’s thoughts than I thought.’

It wasn’t just about understanding patterns. A game with a world-class AI might understand humans in some ways better than they understand themselves. The two items mentioned by Ju, which she wasn’t entirely sure about, were exactly what Leeha needed at the moment.

Leeha left Holy Grill. What he chose was in his hands. The quicker he made the choice, the brighter it would shine. Leeha activated his crystal ball. His destination was, of course, the Vatican.

“Phew… Now, there are no paleos or whatever to deal with.”

In a uniform-like outfit, emitting a blue light from his cannon. Luger, breathing heavily, stood on soil that resembled a burnt charcoal pile. With every step, a rustling sound rose, along with ash-like substances, and the footprints left behind glowed red before disappearing. It looked like land made of burnt charcoal.

Luger, who had not stopped by the Lope Continent since parting with Kidd and had only moved around the New Continent, naturally stepped into places no other user had ever entered.

“Aaah———ack!”

“A crow with four wings, that’s what it is.”

It had already been over a week since the paleos had become nowhere to be seen.

In the meantime, he had passed many places. It had also been over an hour since he stepped onto this land with its strange soil. Even Luger could tell that the atmosphere of this space was completely different. There were several pieces of evidence that bolstered Luger’s conviction that typical paleos wouldn’t be present.

“No, it’s impossible for there to be paleos. Crows with four wings, and those creatures lurking over there, waiting for the right moment…”

Luger quickly turned his head. Something had been watching him from the sparse rocks, but as soon as he turned, whoosh, it quickly hid behind the rocks. A normal user might not have noticed, but this was Luger. In terms of perception, not even Kidd or Leeha could match him. In that brief moment, Luger had seen them. Wolves with three heads. About ten in number. They were watching and being wary of Luger.

“Are they looking for a weakness? Or is it just a simple warning?”

It had been about an hour since Luger entered this land, but he couldn’t speed up. The creatures were annoying, and so far, there was no information about this land.

“There’s no location achievement popping up. A land this vast should have one. If not, it means I haven’t entered far enough to trigger the achievement information…’

Going a bit further would confirm it. So Luger had no choice but to ponder. The number of crows in the sky was gradually increasing, and the same was true for the wolves. A location achievement would mean that I’ve fully stepped into this land. Right now, it’s like a ‘buffer zone’, only watching and guarding against intruders, but if I really ‘enter’, how will these monsters observing me react, these unpleasant beasts?

“Should I deal with them here before moving on?”

Luger slowly loaded his Cobalt Blue Python with bullets. There were quite a few of them, but if he could take out two or three with one attack, it might be possible to finish before the rest rush in.

“However, if they spread out widely and come at me, it will become quite troublesome.”

Luger is a master of hunting. A master hunter doesn’t only think from the hunter’s perspective. He knows that he too could become the prey, hunted at any moment. Especially wolves, creatures specialized in group attacks. He had to consider not only forming a wide formation but also the possibility of coordinating with the crows in the sky.

“With three heads, are they smarter?”

Luger mumbled to himself and then let out a hollow laugh, “Heh.”

“…Spending time with that Ha Leeha guy, I’ve picked up some strange habits.”

Then he shook his head. After all, as soon as he entered this land, Luger had already saved it in the crystal ball. If it’s a monster in the form of an animal, it wouldn’t be able to lock the space.

First, let’s fight. After trying to fight, if it doesn’t work, I can use a return scroll and then come back using the crystal ball.

『Cannon Enhancement: Flat Cannon』.”

Luger quietly recited the skill. Humming, the Cobalt Blue Python glowed with light.

Luger could feel those behind him twitching, but they still hadn’t come out yet.

“Stay behind the rocks… I’ll blow you all up with the rocks.”

If he shot a penetrating explosive shell, it would burst through the rocks and explode right in front of their faces. That single shot could render more than half of them in a near-death state.

Luger barely held back a grin.

The pleasure of success, the feeling of confidence in his strength, was always thrilling.

『Jagd- Ack!”

Boom!

The moment he turned around to pull the trigger, something rushed past his back.

With an immense force of wind.

Like charcoal dust, things from the ground soared into the air.

“-What?”

“Grrrrrr…”

It was then that the three-headed wolves jumped out from behind the rocks. But Luger couldn’t look at them. What had just passed behind him? Luger examined the ground. Something had deeply gouged the earth. The marks looked like bullet scars.

Bang!

It was then that a faint gunshot was heard. Luger’s mind raced like lightning. He thought it had just grazed his ‘back’. But how did it become ‘behind him’? At that moment, Luger had turned around to shoot at the rocks. If he hadn’t turned, what would have been there?

‘My head.’

Ignoring the charging three-headed wolves, Luger tore the scroll. Considering the time difference between the bullet grazing him and the faint gunshot heard from a distance, he could estimate the distance of the sniper.

“Grrrrr-”

Whoosh! Right before Luger’s body disappeared, the three-headed wolves launched an attack. But Luger’s body vanished, and ‘something’ that had just grazed Luger’s back pierced through the spot. Torn apart was not Luger but the body of the three-headed wolves.

“Crack!”

Something that ripped through the body of the three-headed wolves embedded in the ground, raising a cloud of charcoal dust. Embedded in the ground was a bullet. Despite having to reluctantly leave the place he had reached after investing almost all his time in the New Continent, Luger didn’t regret his journey so far.

“Hehehe… finally found it. 『Arcane Sniper』

Considering the time it took for the bullet to graze him and the sound to reach him.

Luger estimated the distance to be 7km.

(To be continued…)
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 “Lowland?!”

“So, it starts from here. Hehehe… hehehe… But it doesn’t matter.”

The place where Luger appeared was the underground city of the gorilla paleos. Some of the gorilla paleos were startled at the sight of Luger, but Luger didn’t even glance at them.

“7km. Even that Ha Leeha guy couldn’t snipe from such an impossible distance. I heard the bastard’s howl at the same moment as the teleportation.”

Crack!

Hearing the howl of the three-headed wolves, Luger had appeared here. What did it mean that he was sniped twice in a row? Luger already knew. A distance of 7km was absolutely impossible to reach with any ‘black powder’ rifle, regardless of the firing angle.

‘There was something the eldest gorilla mentioned. Something that resembled my Cobalt Blue Python…’

One reason the gorilla paleos looked at the Three Musketeers somewhat fondly was that the eldest gorilla paleo had mentioned this. Luger hadn’t forgotten. He hadn’t thought there would be another Cobalt Blue Python, crimson Geckos, or Black Bass in this world. But what if there was one? Even if not exactly the same, it was plausible to assume there might be an item similar or a replica. The skill composition and features of the item might be slightly different.

“Good, good. Let’s see what I can do. First, I should try to initiate a conversation.”

Luger felt a tingling sensation. He had only felt this kind of feeling twice before. The first was when he fought Alexander, just before facing the Ancient-class Gold Dragon Bailephus. And the second time was when he saw Leeha’s sniping. When the guild war broadcast of Hwahong and Byulcho was transmitted worldwide, Luger had watched it too. After all, it was also the reason he sought out Leeha. Did he feel the same when he first saw that footage? Luger shook his head.

“… No, the second time is a bit different compared to now. That fool is in a different league, a completely different league.”

Maybe he just didn’t want to admit it.

Luger carefully wandered around the underground city’s miscellaneous shops, purchasing a few necessary items. In the past, he would have used the crystal ball right away and engaged in a 1:1 battle with Arcane Sniper.

But the current Luger was different. He had much more information about Arcane Sniper than before.

“If he wanted to kill me, he would have. There’s no way I could have escaped.”

If Arcane Sniper had used “Arcane Bullet.” it would have been a 100% chance of death. In other words, an ‘insta-kill.’

It’s impossible to evade an attack akin to divine judgment. But he didn’t shoot Arcane Bullet. Why?

“Because he can only use seven shots.”

Just like how I, Luger, managed to evade just now.

It was nothing short of a miracle, but Luger had escaped, through his intuition and luck. Then that was enough. Since Luger had confirmed how far Arcane Sniper could see, it was the best possible outcome for him.


“Hmm, this kind of thing is just like Ha Leeha or Kidd.”

Luger opened the friend window, checking the locations of Leeha and Kidd, chuckling to himself.

Kidd seemed to be wandering somewhere in the New Continent, while Ha Leeha’s location was confirmed to be at the Ezwen Papacy.

‘Still crawling around like a bug without finding anything… Hehehe.’

There was nothing like the feeling of having the upper hand in information! Luger shuddered with excitement. Shortly after, having purchased all the necessary items, Luger had no more hesitation.

“Now, I will become the first user to be Arcane Sniper!”

Ten seconds after activating the crystal ball, his body was transferred back to the scorched earth. After switching the Cobalt Blue Python to a ‘shoulder-hang’ position, he took out an item without looking back. What Luger hurriedly pulled out of his bag was white paint.

“Grrrrr…”

“Beat it, you wolf bastards. I’d love to string those heads into a necklace, but I’m busy today, so I’ll let you off.”

The three-headed wolves, having three heads each, began to appear again from all around, but Luger paid them no attention.

What was important now wasn’t them. When will Arcane Sniper reveal himself again? How did Arcane Sniper spot him?

‘Last time, I was attacked an hour after entering this land. But I can’t tell if it took an hour for him to spot me, or if this location is his original boundary and I just entered it.’

If the current range is already within his boundary, I could be attacked at any moment. As long as there is no certainty about how Arcane Sniper operates or his system, the sooner I mark my position on the ground, the better.

“Grrrrr…”

“Grrr..”

The number of wolves was increasing. As if refusing to ignore a stranger acting in their land, they began to widely surround Luger. It wasn’t just observation and caution. A real threat. Almost like a prelude to an attack. Luger hurriedly moved, vigorously using his brush. Letter by letter, words larger than Luger’s body began to form on the ground.

“Huh?!”

Suddenly, a sharp sensation jolted him. Luger quickly leapt away. As he rolled, white paint smeared all over his clothes, but he had no time to worry about that. The sound of the ground being pierced was heard. The gunshot that followed was a very faint and small sound.

‘Here it comes!’

Luger hurriedly stood up and grabbed his brush again.


Perhaps because his frantic movements seemed like an opening, the three-headed wolves, who were slowly tightening their encirclement, also quickened their pace.

“Bark bark!”

“Grrr!”

“Damn mutts!”

Luger knew he had to lift the Cobalt Blue Python. He needed to shoot.

But if he dealt with these guys? Then he won’t be able to finish writing. He might have to face bullets from Arcane Sniper, even more terrifying than the teeth of wolves.

“Just one more letter – just one more -”

Luger made a choice. Ignoring the charging three-headed wolves, he decided to finish writing the sentence on the ground first. The movements of the three-headed wolves were overwhelmingly fast. It was impossible for them to miss the opportunity presented by Luger, who was bent over, drawing letters on the ground.

“Gwaaaak-!”

“D, done!”

Just as the first three-headed wolf leaped towards Luger’s back, Luger finally finished writing all the letters.

Successor of 『Pierce』

Each letter, words as big as Luger’s body, was now written on the ground. Before the faint, small gunshot was heard again, the scream of the wolves came first.

“Kehang-!”

“Huh?!”

The three-headed wolf that had leaped towards Luger was thrown onto the ground. Luger also quickly grabbed his Cobalt Blue Python to protect himself, but that was far too presumptuous. Arcane Sniper didn’t miss. When Luger turned the muzzle to shoot at the three-headed wolves, as if reading his intent, arcane Sniper’s bullet reached first. One by one, each of the wolves!

Faster than Luger’s movements of turning, arcane Sniper had read his movements, reacted, aimed, and pulled the trigger. It meant that from a distance of more than 7km, he was moving as swiftly as Kidd in rapid-fire mode. Of course, the meaning was clear. It was an act ‘to protect Luger.’

“Heheheheh… Hahahaha!”

Luger laughed maniacally.

Arcane Sniper must have seen his writing! And just as he thought, it had to be Mr. Brown, the Predeccessor of 『Pierce』, acknowledging and trying to protect him!


“Keang, keang!”

“Kahar, gararack!”

When six three-headed wolves were killed in less than a second, the other wolves surrounding Luger all fled. Luger waited, sticking close to the words ‘Successor of 『Pierce』’ he had written. Waiting for the person who had dealt with all the monsters threatening him, for Arcane Sniper to show himself.

How long had he been waiting? Luger could hardly breathe. He had never felt such excitement, not even when facing Alexander…

“Hm?!”

And finally, something caught his eye. A silhouette, wavering like a mirage, but clearly not a wolf or anything of the sort. Walking on two legs, approaching him – it had to be a human. And if there was someone to appear at this moment, there could only be one person.

“Arcane Sniper! Mr. Brown!”

Luger shouted.

The figure walking in the distance stopped. Luger tilted his head. The closer Arcane Sniper got, the clearer he became, no longer a mere mirage. While he couldn’t fully make out the face or distinguish the clothes, he could at least discern the movements.

Luger narrowed his eyes, scrutinizing every move. What items was he wearing?

What exactly was that ‘gun’ from which he fired Arcane Bullet’s shots? Even in Kaztor’s books, the information about ‘firearms’ wasn’t properly detailed, let alone a gun that could handle Arcane Bullet. And what about a gun handling Arcane Bullet? Could it be used with his own Cobalt Blue Python? Were there any constraints in handling the energy form known as Arcane Bullet? Luger wanted to know everything about Arcane Sniper, who had now revealed himself. So focused was Luger that he could accurately determine what Arcane Sniper was doing.

“He’s… observing me. No, it’s not just observation. That action is-”

Luger thought Arcane Sniper was holding something like a mirror. A light flashed, twinkling.

***

“Phew… this really gets tiring. It would be great if I could just sleep like before.”

Kidd sat leaning against a tree trunk.

‘Having a purpose but no specific destination’ was one of the types of adventures Kidd disliked the most. Arriving at a definite destination and getting a bit of rest – that was the behavior most suited to ‘Sleeping’ Kidd. After taking a drink of water from his bag, Kidd opened the Three Musketeers’ friend window.

‘What is everyone up to? Ha Leeha seemed to be roaming the Silver Plains, and now… the Papacy?’

Checking the location of the Three Musketeers about a dozen times a day was Kidd’s hobby. It was more than just a hobby, as the sheer amount of information he could deduce from their locations alone was substantial. Indeed, it was possible for him, with his level of analytical skills.

‘The Papacy, really? Could it be that he still hasn’t received his reward?’

Kidd felt a momentary shock. It seemed absurd, but with Ha Leeha, it might be possible, and that belief made it even more preposterous. To think that he had ever trusted and followed such a naive and careless person.

‘How can the same person show such different behaviors? It’s like having two people in one body. He’s a subject of research.’

Kidd chuckled and then checked the location of another member of the Three Musketeers. Luger was marked as busily moving around in the underground city of the gorilla paleos.

‘The underground city? There’s nothing left to gain there, so what’s Luger doing?’

Could he be planning to enter Kaztor’s Laboratory No. 7 alone? Now that everything there has been scraped clean, there’s nothing left to gain by going back.

‘Or maybe he’s gotten some new information? It’s possible if he’s going to compare it with something else…’

Kidd tilted his head, watching Luger’s constantly changing location.

However, among the detailed location changes like ‘underground city square’ or ‘miscellaneous shops’, there were no mentions of ‘Kaztor’s Laboratory’ or ‘underground dungeon.’

(To be continued…)
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 “Hmm… Huh?”

Unsheathing a Crimson Gecko, Kidd slipped it onto his finger and spun it around with a whirring sound. While habitually spinning his revolver, he was scrutinizing Luger’s location, and finally, he caught sight of it changing.

『Blooming Wasteland』?”

The term ‘wasteland’ implies a place where nothing can grow. But blooming?

For Kidd, it was an incomprehensible name for a location. Right now, rather than interpreting the place, he felt a mix of awe and jealousy that Luger had advanced to a realm completely beyond his comprehension.

“I thought I had traveled a lot, but this… It’s why I can never rest. All the people here are so inhuman.”

Kidd grunted and got up again. His constant check on the other Musketeers’ location was perhaps to find the motivation, a new stimulus to move himself. He opened his bag to check the number of bullets and also checked the ones currently loaded. For quick reloading, he had to ensure the bullets on his waist belt and the speed loader in his bag were all ready. Preparation in peacetime was the only way to accelerate action in wartime. After clanking around for a few minutes, Kidd was also mapping the New Continent in his head.

“Now, which direction to head next… Huh?!”

At that moment, Kidd couldn’t believe his eyes. In the friend window of the Musketeers, Luger had changed to a logged-out status.

“Hello!”

Leeha teleported to Ezwen’s Vatican Square and moved into the Vatican. The guards at the entrance, who were staunchly guarding it, bowed their heads as they received Leeha’s greeting.

“Welcome, Ha Leeha-nim. What brings you here?”

“Ah, I have something to report to the Pope regarding the New Continent expedition.”

“I’ve heard. You completed the New Continent expedition splendidly, didn’t you?”

“Ah, splendid is an overstatement. It’s all because of the others. May I enter now?”

“Of course. I will guide you right away.”

These were the guards at the entrance of the Vatican, comparable to the central palace guards of the Fibiel Royal Palace.

Even such guards showed respectful manners to Leeha first. The reason was not only because of handling the Demon King’s agents quest but also the high reputation gained in the Lope Continent, along with the effect of the 『Dignity』 buff.

‘Hmm, they seem to treat me even better than in Fibiel. Should I defect?’

Leeha chuckled at the absurd thought. Certainly, compared to dealing with the paleos in New Continent Erika, activities in the Old Continent were more comfortable.


“Hmm, there was a time when I tiptoed in, unsure of how the Demon King’s agents would act.”

Leeha recalled old times in front of the Pope’s audience chamber. Then, suddenly, anger towards Chiyou surged. Thinking about it, the Demon King’s minions also had an extensive information network. There could only be one reason for this.

‘The Shinobigumi must have extended their reach even then. Not joining the Demon King’s army themselves but surely trying to gain benefits from outside, like the Holy Grill’s reports. There’s no precedent of a ‘user’ creating such an extensive intelligence guild.’

Leeha now almost knew everything. In Fibiel, there were makeshift guilds created by users, labeled as intelligence or thief guilds. But in Minis, user-created intelligence guilds were almost nonexistent, and the reason was simple.

The Shinobi-Gum had made these ‘cells’ of user intelligence guilds in Minis their own, controlling everything.

The fact that Holy Grill could extract quality information from the Minis side only after Chiyou’s death meant that the current user-created information guilds in Minis were likely in panic.

“Compared to the Rising-Sun era. It would be a time of Spring and Autumn Warring States if the Shinobigumi suffered near-total destruction. Someone would step up to take the place of the Shinobigumi, but without charisma on Chiyou’s level, it would not be easy.

‘In other words, no annoying folks to bother me for a while! Kehe, if it’s just about pushing through with sheer force, I welcome it. If I shoot from at least 2,500 meters away, it’s a one-shot-’

“His Holiness invites you in.”

‘-kill- Ah, what? Ah!’

Lost in his daydreams with a pleased expression, Leeha was met with a surprised look from the Vatican guards. Embarrassed, Leeha bowed his head low.

Finally, the doors of the Vatican opened, and Leeha entered a familiar place he had visited several times before. He was greeted by the Pope and the Archbishop of the Ezwen Diocese, who was the Pope’s aide.

“Ha Leeha!”

“It’s been a while since I greeted you, Your Holiness.”

Leeha respectfully knelt on one knee to greet him. The Pope NPC, designed as an elderly man, approached Leeha with a look as if he was about to cry.

“You did well. Really well. I’ve heard so much about your exploits, but seeing you in person is truly overwhelming.”

“You heard about me?”

Leeha was momentarily taken aback by the Pope’s effusive greeting. The Pope, still overwhelmed with emotion, hugged Leeha and patted his back. The Archbishop, standing behind, responded.

“Yes, Ha Leeha-nim. Even Fernand and the Ancient Dragon mentioned your deeds.”

“Is that so.”


Leeha nodded his head. He felt that arriving late wasn’t necessarily a bad thing. Had he been the first, there might have been a lot to report and discuss in terms of work. But being the last, he could just soak in the warm welcome and pick up the essentials.

“Now there’s only one thing left, isn’t it?”

“Yes, Your Holiness. Now that we’ve established a base in the New Continent, only one thing remains.”

The goals of Ezwen, unlike ordinary nations like Fibiel or Minis, are a bit different.

Unlike ordinary nations that are much more interested in mundane matters, ezwen’s goal is clear. Leeha, fully aware of this goal, could speak before the Pope even mentioned it.

“We need to find and eliminate Bluebeard. With a considerable number of users—no, humans—from the Old Continent involved, we’ll catch his tail soon enough.”

“Hmm, hmm, yes. That’s true. The challenge is in laying such a foundation… Good. It’s now in your hands. The fate of our Lope Continent depends on you. I’m truly grateful. I hope you’ll continue to lend your strength.”

“It’s nothing. I just did what had to be done.”

As the Pope stepped back and created distance, Leeha respectfully bowed again. When the hologram window popped up, a white light emanated from Leeha’s body.

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

『Common Quest: Strike the Grass and the Snake Will Appear』

Description: “There are reports of strong demonic energies being detected in the New Continent. Investigating these areas will surely lead you to Bluebeard. We’ve already requested cooperation from the existing New Continent expedition members as well as various nations. I hope you will quickly find traces of him in the New Continent.”

Bluebeard isn’t someone who can be found just by detecting mana.

However, it’s a different story for other members of the Demon King’s army. The Pope had identified several locations in the New Continent where demonic energies were strongly felt. Find and verify the demon’s strongholds scattered across the New Continent and report back to the Vatican.

Task: Verify the Demon’s Stronghold (2/7) Reward: Connected Quest – Catching the Tail Condition for Failure: Failure to verify the demon’s stronghold within 100 days (Remaining time: 93 days)

Failure Penalty: ?

Would you like to accept?

‘Common Quest – I see. It means it’s a quest shared by all participating users.’

Although he had never experienced it before, Leeha understood it just from the situation below. Recent facts he hadn’t known properly because he was only in the Old Continent. In the New Continent, there were already seven demon strongholds pinpointed by the Pope, and two of them had been confirmed.


‘This quest will be cleared automatically even if I don’t move.’

Indeed, considering that Leeha had just received the quest and two were already found, it seemed likely that someone else would resolve the remaining five.

Of course, it would be some of the existing New Continent expedition members, the considerable powerhouses, but there was enough possibility of a ‘free ride quest clearance’. The problem, however, was the time limit. If everyone thought like him and procrastinated, it could be a disaster.

‘The quest content seems relatively easy, and the reward is clearly a connected quest, so it appears to be of low difficulty.’ However, Leeha did not feel that way.

A quest that triggered human selfishness – what if it fails? There’s definitely a reason for hiding the failure penalty; it must entail a significant loss.

Other users might have re-evaluated everything. But Leeha had no more fears. Was it the confidence from having obtained both upper and lower 『Joint Fixation』? Or perhaps belief in the items he would acquire in the future.

‘If it really comes down to it, I’ll just clear them all myself.’

With a confident attitude, Leeha pressed the accept button.

“I will also do my best to find traces of Bluebeard in the New Continent.”

“Trustworthy indeed. Very trustworthy!”

“Excuse me, Your Holiness. So, about that…”

There was something else that needed quick attention. Why hadn’t another alert popped up? It wasn’t until Leeha subtly mentioned it that the Pope, as if suddenly remembering, touched Leeha’s shoulder.

“Oh! Of course. We’ve invested a great deal of resources in discovering the New Continent Erika. In the name of the Lord Ahlo, we’ve given adequate rewards to the other expedition members. And you’re no exception, Leeha. Archbishop!”

“Yes, Your Holiness.”

“Lead the way to our treasury.”

“Understood.”

Leeha internally cheered. That’s right, this is how it should be. Securing items is the most important thing!

“Let’s go.”

“Eep. Then, Your Holiness, I’ll visit you again with good news!”

“Of course! I have no doubt in you.”

Leeha was about to follow the Archbishop but quickly turned around to pay his respects to the Pope one last time. The Pope watched his respectful departure with a pleased smile.

Leaving the Pope’s audience chamber, Leeha reviewed the quest again.

‘Who found those two places? Hmm, should I have asked? No

well. With a quest this high-profile, holy Grill will surely know about it. People like Kijung or Lee Jiwon might have better information.’

Members of the Byulcho group, who were part of the original New Continent expedition, had likely already visited them.

It’s possible that they, who mainly did party hunts in the New Continent, completed the investigation of one site. If not them, then solo player expert and hunting master Lee Jiwon. He, too, would be active in the New Continent. Alexander goes without saying.

‘As for Fernand… Hmm, given his personality, he might be more focused on pioneering, but he would surely help if things get dire. He must have received this quest as well.’ The quest offered to users who came for item rewards was a quest that all original New Continent expedition members shared. Naturally, considering their strength, it was a relief.

Kidd: What’s up?

Leeha: Ah, Kidd! Good timing. I’m at the Vatican right now, you got this quest too, right? Something about finding demon strongholds…

Kidd: That’s not important right now.

Leeha: Huh?

It was then that Leeha received an urgent whisper while following the Archbishop. Thinking of sharing information, but Kidd, uncharacteristically, cut off Leeha’s words. Leeha sensed some anxiety in Kidd’s voice.

Leeha: What’s wrong?

Kidd: Nothing’s wrong with me.

Leeha: What do you mean? You didn’t contact me just to joke around, did you?

Kidd: But something has happened to Luger.

Leeha: Luger? What could possibly happen to Luger?

Kidd: Luger is dead.

(To be continued…)
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 “What?!”

“What, what happened?”

“Oh, no- it’s nothing. I apologize, cardinal-nim.”

Leeha had to hastily apologize to the Cardinal. In the Vatican, he had unwittingly let out a loud ‘Pak!’ sound, so surprising was Kidd’s statement.

Leeha: What are you talking about? Luger died? By whom? Why?

Kidd: I don’t know either. But… there’s someone you’re suspecting, right?

Leeha: What did he say he was doing? Did he die while hunting?

Kidd: Haaah, don’t you remember?

At Leeha’s misstep, Kidd sighed. Leeha was just as frustrated. What on earth had happened to Luger? At least since Leeha had met Luger, there had never been any news of his death. Even more so, to die so suddenly. And that Kidd knew about it?

Leeha: What is it! Hurry up and tell me!

Kidd: Think about what Luger said he would do last.

Leeha: The last time… when the three of us separated- uh, that is, when I left the underground city and probably-

Suddenly, Leeha’s footsteps halted. The Cardinal, walking ahead, turned his head.

“Are, are you okay? If you have any pain, let me know. While I may not have as much divine power as His Holiness, I can alleviate some of the pain…”

The Cardinal was worried enough to look at Leeha’s distorted face. In this moment, Leeha could fully share Kidd’s anxiety.

What was the last thing Luger had said to him when they parted?

‘I’m going to find… the Arcane Sniper.’

And now, he was dead. Could an ordinary monster of the New Continent kill him? With teleportation and return scrolls, it wouldn’t be easy. Killed due to spatial lock and PK? Given Luger’s personality, he would have quite deep grudges here and there, but it was unlikely that he would suffer such a fate deep in the New Continent. Naturally, the possibilities had to narrow down to one place.

‘… He found it.’

The one who killed Luger was the Arcane Sniper. In other words, Luger had found it. The Arcane Sniper. Leeha bit his lip.


***

Leeha: He found it.

Kidd: It seems reasonable to think that.

There was a reason for Kidd’s voice to be firm.

Just a while ago, Leeha had checked the location of the Three Musketeers. He remembered where Kidd was and where Luger had been.

That thought came to mind, and Leeha immediately asked Kidd.

Leeha: If we track the vicinity of where Luger was yesterday morning, perhaps-

Kidd: No. I know the last place he was.

Leeha: …What do you mean? You saw Luger’s last location?

Luger’s last location, that is, the place of his death. Where was it? Right where the Arcane Sniper is.

Leeha asked, but Kidd did not answer.

Leeha: Ki…dd?

Kidd: I’m going ahead.

Leeha: Wa, wait a minute! Where to?! At least tell me the place before you go! And how are you going to do it? What are you planning to do by going alone? You said Luger is dead!

Kidd: Don’t you remember what happened with Lepanto? He must have recklessly gone alone and died. I won’t do that.

Leeha: No, wait a minute! This isn’t something to think about so lightly-

Kidd: Then, that’s it.

Leeha: Kidd! Kidd!

Leeha tried to put more force into his whisper, but no further response came from Kidd.

Leeha pondered for a moment. If he used the Three Musketeers’ chain teleport, he could immediately go to Kidd’s side.


Should he fly there right away?

‘No, no, no. Kidd hasn’t moved yet. His current location isn’t there. It’s better not to chase him prematurely and miss him-‘

Let’s wait. Until Kidd’s location changes to a much more unclear and ominous name.

Fortunately, the locations of the Three Musketeers are displayed in much more detail than regular friend window. And since Middle Earth is a game, it was quite predictable that the Arcane Sniper would be in a land with a ‘bad looking name’. While Leeha was pondering for a moment, Kidd had already deactivated the teleport of the Three Musketeers. Frustration surged in Leeha.

‘Stupid! What can you do alone? Especially being a ‘rapid shooter’!’

Leeha thought about the future plan logically, but the anxiety and restlessness did not immediately disappear. Luger is dead. How did he die? Did the Arcane Sniper shoot the Arcane Bullet? Or? What terrain, from how far a distance, and with what weapon did he kill Luger? Did Luger fight back? Did he land a hit?

‘Let’s assume the Arcane Sniper is me.’ Leeha had some confidence in himself.

If he and Luger were to fight one-on-one, as long as he wasn’t ambushed, he didn’t think he would lose. Above all, the difference in range was overwhelming.

‘But if my position is revealed.’ He couldn’t be sure.

It was Luger who could render the overwhelming range advantage useless. Although Leeha recently succeeded in a snipe shot with a maximum range of 4km, such a long-range sniper shot always requires clear visibility.

In reality, the reason Leeha was able to snipe a Brass Golem from 4km away was because there was nothing to obstruct his view, as he was shooting from one mountaintop to another.

Luger, who knows the weaknesses of long-range sniping well, would, in a terrain suitable for stealth, slowly approach like a snake hunting its prey and completely blow up the spot where Leeha is standing.

‘He has enough ability to do that.’

Therefore, Luger’s death is not just a matter of ‘confirmation of death.’

The ‘circumstances’ under which he died are the most important. Kidd spoke too easily, making Leeha worry about him even more.

Kidd, smart enough to be called the ‘brain’ of the Three Musketeers by Chiyou, would certainly have thought of what Leeha has so far. Despite this, Luger’s case was shocking enough to worry Leeha.

“This is the place.”

“Oh, yes?”

“Our Vatican’s treasury.”

“Oh, ah! Yes, right. The treasury.”


Having momentarily forgotten where he was headed, Leeha, guided by the Cardinal, finally arrived at the Vatican’s treasury.

Perhaps because it was as small as a city-state but had the power bestowed by the name of the Holy Nation, it was not an underground space like the royal treasury of Fibiel.

A giant gilded door stood before Leeha, exuding solidity.

“It’s huge…”

“Yes, it is. It contains not only the items left by the past Popes who performed miracles but also those said to be directly bestowed by God.”

“There are such things? Could I possibly take something like that-”

“However, I don’t know what they are.”

“Pardon?”

“I too have only heard about it for the management of this place. Perhaps someone else has already taken it.”

The Cardinal said with a smile.

Could it be true?

Or is it just a legend passed down like a story? Listening to the ambiguous words of the NPC, Leeha tilted his head.

“Feel free to look around and let me know if you find something to your liking. I’ll be right here at the door.”

“Ah, yes.”

The Cardinal opened the golden door. Leeha walked into the Vatican’s treasury.

‘Really…

Apart from the Pope being the representative of God on this land, how Ezwen can exhibit power on the continent by actually using divine power.

Although Leeha had not fully grasped even the royal treasury of Fibiel, he could easily tell that the Vatican’s treasury was much larger than that place.

‘I heard from Ju, but hearing the Cardinal’s words makes me feel uncertain again.’

The well-organized classification, like a large supermarket, was another reason that made the place seem larger. Leeha began to search for items. There were two items that Ju had recommended as the most necessary for him at the moment. What else could be useful?

“It sure looks nice. Everything is sorted by grade.”

Just after entering the door, for a brief moment, he saw a few rare items, but now, the aisle Leeha was walking down was lined with hero-grade items on both sides. Turning his head to the left, the wall was not visible properly. Turning to the right, the wall was still not in sight. Whichever way he looked, shelves filled with items lined up to seven levels. Leeha couldn’t remember how many such shelves and corners he had passed. It was no exaggeration to say that every type of weapon, armor, and accessory suitable for all job classes in Middle Earth existed here.

‘This is crazy, really. And so many hero-grade items… If I go a bit further, I’ll find legendary items. Or perhaps… There might be items I’ve only seen once before.’

Leeha recalled the item that resurrected Blaugrunn.

Mythical-grade items, easter eggs.

Items with unbelievable abilities, like an Easter egg.

And wouldn’t they be much easier to find? If they’re displayed like this, sorted by grade? There’s no need to fiddle with items in the front. I just have to run straight to the back and pick them up. Naturally, the highest grades would be there.

“Okay, let’s skip the front! I’ll start searching from the back!”

Leeha ran. Without caring about his stamina. Until he reached the end! Continuously, incessantly!

But the end never came. Although it didn’t matter that he could run until his stamina was all used up, Leeha was flabbergasted.

‘… Is it really this big?’

He ran and ran.

The hypnotic effect of the shelves passing by was almost surreal.

White floors, white ceilings, shelves of the same size lined up at equal intervals, and endless items on each shelf… No matter how much he ran, the same scene continued to appear.

It was the same whether he looked left or right while running.

The items glimpsed in front of the shelves were surely changing. He wasn’t just running in place, so what was going on?

“No, this is killing me. What is this?”

After running for a long time, Leeha eventually had to stop.

Was it even possible to have no end? Even in Middle Earth, there should be some limit to space. Suppressing his irritation, Leeha picked up an item from the shelf right in front of him.

『Rare Non-Breakable Knife Treated with Magic Alloy』

Attack Power: 670 – 680

Type: Close combat, one-handed weapon

Effects: Agility +11, critical Hit Rate increased by 19%, a chance to activate 〈Explosion〉

Requirements: Strength over 250, agility over 800

Description: A knife made from materials treated with magic alloy. It won’t break even when stabbed into a stone golem, and thanks to the magical engravings on the blade, it occasionally triggers explosion magic. It’s a highly practical tool as it requires no maintenance cost, and its aesthetic appeal makes it popular in the black market.

“Huh?”

The dagger, engraved with unrecognizable patterns, confused Leeha.

Rare-grade? Suddenly a rare-grade? The rare-grade items had all disappeared before even passing ten shelves upon entering. And everything checked since then was hero-grade?!

‘This doesn’t make sense. How can there be rare-grade items again now? If they were mixed up, why bother categorizing them like this-’

Suddenly, a chill ran down Leeha’s spine. Mixed up? That couldn’t be. Leeha turned around.

“Aha… So that’s how it is.”

The golden door he had entered through was right nearby.

Walking a little further and examining the items, he recognized several of them. They were items he had checked earlier.

‘It’s like a loop. No, still, this is too cruel for the Vatican!’

If you blindly run towards the end, you end up back at the beginning!

Perhaps it’s a lesson not to be greedy and to find something suitable?

If he got too greedy here, he might just exhaust his stamina without gaining anything.

Leeha nodded his head and walked leisurely. Kidd’s location hadn’t changed since the last check.

Knowing that Leeha would follow if he moved rashly, Kidd wouldn’t go to Luger’s last location as long as Leeha didn’t log out.

(To be continued…)
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 ‘No, even if Kidd knows the last location of Luger, it would be difficult to head straight there.’

After all, Kidd would need to know how to get to that place. Located in the New Continent and having constantly checked Luger’s location at every moment, Kidd would also need some time. Leeha steadied his breath. There was no need to get excited just because treasures were in sight. Moreover, Leeha, who has entered various treasuries multiple times, shouldn’t do that.

‘Slowly… Don’t expect coincidences in such a place. Focus only on what I want. The path I should take.’

Then, there’s no need to be greedy. One can only obtain what they want by letting go of greed here. Leeha walked slowly. He himself couldn’t tell how much time had passed. It was definitely more than an hour or two, maybe even long enough to be tedious. Leeha walked with focus.

Rare-grade equipment, rare-grade materials, hero-grade equipment, hero-grade materials, and finally, legendary-grade equipment. Even after passing all the legendary-grade equipment, what caught Leeha’s eye were the materials.

Legendary-grade materials.

‘From here on…’

Leeha entered the shelves on either side and thoroughly examined them.

The classification was meticulously done according to the characteristics of each material, so he could skip over materials that looked like minerals or sand, and even things that looked like framed pictures.

He knew each of those items, one by one, would be extremely valuable.

And he also knew that upon reading the item description, he would surely think of a way to use it.

‘But no. At least not now. What I need isn’t that.’

He knew because he heard it from Ju of the Holy Grill. What item did Leeha currently need the most?

“… Found one.”

Leeha picked up an item. And then continued walking.

There were materials from various monster body parts, and as Leeha looked around those shelves, he found another item.

Just as Ju had described.

“Found another one.”

Leeha held an item in each hand. He opened the description windows for both items.

『Legendary Growth Accelerator』


Effects: Enhances the rank of any creature in Middle Earth, including pets.

Description: A potion that made Bill Burgler famous as a legendary thief. Nobody believed his claim of having plundered a Platinum Dragon’s lair. However, among the items he brought back were two growth accelerators, and after seeing an ordinary horse swallow the potion and become a Pegasus, no one could doubt him anymore. The famous anecdote where the Platinum Dragon threatened to kill all humans if the potion wasn’t returned and set out to find it. It is said that the 11th Pope managed to calm the dragon and obtained this potion from Bill Burgler as a reward.

『Eye of Argos Revealing the Legend』

Description: One of the eyes of the legendary giant said to have a hundred eyes. The hundred eyes covering his body were to watch in all directions. In reality, when you hold one of his eyes in front of you, you can see everything in a straight line, regardless of distance, as clearly as with your own eyes.

Unlike magic using crystal balls or revealing coordinates, it can only be used when facing it. However, it has the advantage of feeling like things are right in front of you without distance limitations. It was a tribute received by the 3rd Pope.

‘Amazing. How did they know I needed something like this.’

The descriptions and effects of the items were impressive, but what truly astonished Leeha was the fact that the Holy Grill knew exactly what he needed the most at this moment.

One was a one-time use item, the growth accelerator. Its purpose was clear.

Growth of Blaugrunn.

‘If he becomes a Juvenile-class and can communicate, we might find something in Blaugrunn’s lair. Maybe a clue related to Koma’s growth… Or maybe something similar to this other item I’m holding.’

Leeha turned his head. The Eye of Argos. It’s not just a mere field boss like a Cyclops. It was literally material from a monster of legend! It was clear from the description. Simply put, using this would result in a scope with ‘infinite magnification.’

‘Not just 30 times like now. Literally, seeing as if it’s right in front of your eyes. Of course, I don’t need infinite magnification! Even 100 times – no, 60-70 times would be enough!’

Of course, adjusting the click settings to suit that level of magnification would be difficult, but that’s not Leeha’s worry. There’s already a skillful dwarf who knows the structure of scopes.

“Hmmmm…”

Leeha’s dilemma wasn’t just because of the advantages.

Each item had clear and distinct advantages, but there were unpredictable disadvantages as well.

‘What if I choose the growth accelerator and Blaugrunn is just about to upgrade to Juvenile?’

The term ‘upgrade’ might sound a bit crude, but the situation itself made sense. There’s no percentage display for growth. Maybe Blaugrunn is in a state where it could become Juvenile with just 5-10 more feedings before using the growth accelerator.

‘Yeah, I’ve been feeding it for quite some time now. I might get a chance to obtain it a few more times in Fibiel’s royal treasury, but I might never return to the Vatican’s treasury again.’

This incredible opportunity must not be wasted in vain. Leeha looked at the growth accelerator. Another risk was related to Blaugrunn’s lair. Having become partners with Blaugrunn and grown closer, Leeha could possibly get a few more items by flattering it.


‘But I have to remember that Blaugrunn’s last stage was ‘Adult’, not ‘Ancient.’’

It’s not an incredibly powerful dragon, like Bailephus or Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. Of course, a dragon is a dragon, and it would be formidable compared to ordinary monsters or players, but would it have a plethora of legendary-grade items?

‘The worst-case scenario would be using the growth accelerator just before Blaugrunn upgrades to Juvenile, and Blaugrunn’s lair having poor loot, and even Bottleneck failing to make a better scope. No, what if he can make it but says, ‘Bring me the Eye of Argos!’…

Then I would face the worst-case scenario neatly.

Wasting 100% of the once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to use the Vatican’s treasury.

Leeha smirked and examined the Eye of Argos, resembling a huge crystal ball. Could he choose this without any burden? It turned out not to be the case.

‘This time, the opposite of the bad scenarios that could arise from choosing the growth accelerator.’

One advantage is that there is no monster or NPC named Argos currently existing.

Meaning, this item could only be obtained here.

If Bottleneck mentions this as an essential ingredient for making a better scope?

Leeha’s choice would be spot-on.

‘But what if that’s not the case?’

For instance, what if the scope can be made with materials easily bought from the auction house? What if there’s still a long way to go before Blaugrunn becomes Juvenile? Choosing the Eye of Argos over the growth accelerator might end up being utterly useless.

Having two scopes would be pointless.

“Ah! Madame Ju! Just tell me one! If you had told me just one, I wouldn’t be agonizing and could have made a choice!”

Why did it have to be two items? In situations like this, not knowing seems to be a blessing, thought Leeha. If his affinity with the intelligence guild was lower, and Ju had casually mentioned just one item, he would have already chosen an item and left! After struggling and stomping around for a while, Leeha calmed his mind again. His internal situation indicated that his current thinking was correct. He had to consider various possibilities. But excluding everything else and thinking only about the immediate external factors, what would be the best choice? The answer was simple when pondered that way. Currently, there was only one opponent Leeha needed to focus on.

“… If the Arcane Sniper has appeared, then what I need first and foremost is a scope.”

He had already guessed it. The Arcane Sniper would be one of the former Three Musketeers. Either Mister Brown or Miss Elizabeth, he would have to fight one of them. It’s not a giant like the Brass Golem. Just a human.

‘Can I hit such a human-sized target from 4km away, like I did with the Brass Golem?’

If it’s 4km, that would be a relief.


What about 5km? Or 6, 7km? What if it’s 10km, as recorded in the Second Human-Dragon War Chronicles?

Without a better scope, he would be practically helpless.

Excluding the unknowns, the choice became clear. The safety-oriented ‘Eye of Argos’ or the adventure-oriented ‘Growth Accelerator.’

“This game really drives people crazy with choices.”

There can’t be a right answer this time. It’s impossible to calculate.

“It’s beyond the range of calculation a player can do -”

Suddenly, a thought flashed through Leeha’s mind. From a player’s perspective, they couldn’t calculate what would happen to Blaugrunn or what Bottleneck could do.

That’s entirely up to the system. So then… what if? Leeha held the two items in his hands and stood there blankly for quite some time. After nearly 30 minutes of standing motionless without even blinking, Leeha’s expression returned to normal. His lips were slowly curling into a smile.

“Hehehe…”

Leeha finally chose one item. As soon as he left the Vatican’s treasury, he activated the crystal ball. Moments later, the place Leeha landed was somewhat unexpected.

“I didn’t expect to come here so soon.”

Facing the being showing a brief moment of surprise, Leeha greeted with a smile. In the giant artificially created cave, there was only one person, but the old man sitting on the chair had a presence that seemed to fill the cave.

“When horns are hot, they say it’s best to strike. Have you been well, lord?”

“What could possibly happen? Bailephus is having fun across the sea and doesn’t come to visit, just a bit boring.”

The old man, grumbling and pouting upon hearing Leeha’s words, was none other than the leader of the Metal Dragons, the Platinum Dragon, lord Bahamut.

“Lord Bahamut, it’s because you blew such winds. Saying there are beings stronger than dragons, no wonder Lord Bailephus’s heart is not at ease.”

“But, it’s the truth. There are indeed mighty mystical creatures among the spiritual beings. It would be good if there were friendly interactions with them. I’m curious to see how things will unfold.”

He said he was curious, but his expression showed no worry or concern. His interest-driven demeanor allowed Leeha to sense the absolute ease of the Platinum Dragon. Leeha was here for one reason only.

He had been in ‘whisper’ conversations with him all along from the Vatican’s treasury.

One might wonder what Leeha could possibly have to discuss with Bahamut at this point, but on reflection, it wasn’t strange at all. In fact, he had precisely chosen the target for his conversation.

(To be continued…)
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 『Legendary Growth Accelerator』

Description: … No one believed him when he said he had plundered the lair of the Platinum Dragon. The famous Tale of the Platinum Dragon threatening to kill all humans if the potion wasn’t returned and setting out to find it…

‘The growth accelerator was made by Bahamut himself! He clearly said it. That he made it. But, it’s been so long that he has forgotten how to make it!’

While whispering with Bahamut, Leeha felt a sense of incongruity.

The Platinum Dragon, also the Lord of the Metal Dragons, said he had forgotten how to make the growth accelerator!

A dragon?

A being that could be considered the epitome of wisdom and knowledge?

Moreover, not just an Adult but not even an Ancient, but the leader of the Metal Dragons?!

For such an important and fantastical item! It could potentially allow all the metal dragon race’s hatchlings, juveniles, and adults to grow beyond Ancient-Class! He forgot how to make something that could enable such a dramatic growth of their own species?

That’s unbelievable.

Therefore, Leeha realized this was another mystery of Middle Earth.

‘Logically thinking, the item description doesn’t make sense! If the Platinum Dragon was so agitated that he threatened to kill everyone if the item wasn’t returned? The Platinum Dragon is the boss of the Metal Dragons, isn’t he?’

Would the other Metal Dragons have just sat idly by while their boss rampaged? That’s unlikely.

‘It’s impossible that the ‘11th Pope calmed down a rampaging Platinum Dragon’!’

If the item description is true, it might be a prank of God, or rather, something accomplished by the Pope with the help of divine power. So, the persuasion mentioned in the item description isn’t just a verbal negotiation or some bargaining skill but something more. Leeha whispered with Bahamut in the treasury.

But no matter what keywords he brought up, Bahamut’s response was not very satisfactory. The reason for this is apparent.

‘The Pope used some kind of magic, some kind of divine power. That’s how the rampaging Platinum Dragon was ‘persuaded’.’

That could be the hidden power of the Ezwen Holy State. Leeha thought it was something close to memory manipulation, especially considering Bahamut claimed to have forgotten how to make the growth accelerator.

“I mentioned this earlier. The 11th Pope was from a very long time ago, but anyway, you must have been the Platinum Dragon even then. You said you’ve been in that position for thousands of years.”

Leeha carefully took out the growth accelerator from his bag.


Remember, recall it. A vial containing a liquid that changes color depending on the angle of light. Leeha handled it delicately and extended it towards the Platinum Dragon.

Though there was a fair distance to Bahamut, that posed no hindrance. Soon the vial left Leeha’s hand, floating in the air towards Bahamut.

Leeha saw it.

There was a distinct change in Bahamut’s expression.

“This is… This thing-”

He knew his gamble had paid off. Leeha’s reason for talking to Bahamut and bringing the growth accelerator was obviously singular.

‘Maybe not mass-produced, but… if I can just make one more!’

If the Platinum Dragon could recall how to make the growth accelerator. Just one more, and…

The hatchling Blaugrunn could rapidly grow beyond Juvenile and reach Adult-class, just like the noble and intelligent young man who had fought alongside Leeha against Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

“Blaugrunn.”

Bahamut quietly called his name as he looked at the vial.

Without any summoning skill or casting trace, blaugrun had suddenly appeared in Bahamut’s lair.

『Kyuu!? Kyuu?』

Blaugrunn seemed momentarily perplexed at being teleported, but upon seeing Bahamut and Leeha, he quickly relaxed.

『Kyuu, Kyuu, Kyuu.』

It seemed almost like a greeting of “I pay my respects, lord.” as Blaugrunn bowed his long neck gracefully to Bahamut. Bahamut glanced at Blaugrunn, then at the vial, and finally at Leeha. His expression was akin to that of a grandfather admiring his grandson who had scored a perfect 100 on a test.

“Leeha.”

“Yes, lord.”

“Indeed, accepting you into our clan was undoubtedly the right choice.”

“Pardon?”


“I’d like to find and burn that 11th Pope’s hat… but this will do. Thank you. I finally remember.”

Leeha barely contained his urge to cheer, ‘See, I knew it would work!’

He simply bowed his head silently, and Bahamut nodded before gesturing to Blaugrunn.

“Blaugrunn.”

『Kyuu.』

“You’ve worked hard. Now, return.”

The vial floated in Bahamut’s hand.

Blaugrunn, watching the vial drift through the air, knew what he had to do.

The hatchling flapped its wings, took the vial, and drank from it.

“Ugh.”

Leeha squeezed his eyes shut and turned his head away.

He even had to shield his eyes with his arm, such was the intensity of the light filling Bahamut’s lair. Leeha wondered if the lair might crumble from the erupting light.

‘After all the feeding, the rare potions and fresh ingredients mixed together… and now, actual evolution is triggered by a potion, of all things.’

Despite his complaints, Leeha’s face was bright. The evolution’s light, still burning brightly beyond his eyelids, felt like it was illuminating his future. The long duration of the light suggested a significant gap in the dragon’s growth stages. Leeha hoped that was the case. Even reaching Juvenile-class would be immensely helpful, a world apart from his hatchling state.

‘Now that I think about it, the last time I met a Juvenile-class was… near Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair. Those little ones from the Chromatic Dragon clan.’

He remembered the green and white dragons but not their names. However, he recalled they were proactive enough to attack him.

‘But they were a bit arrogant. Hmm… No, still, blaugrun isn’t newly born. He’s been resurrected, so he should have memories of being an Adult, right? Or does he? I’ve never really checked.’

What if he doesn’t? A sudden thought struck Leeha. In his plan, blaugrun was to be a perfect ally, matching his sniping with precision. Like Blaugrunn at the Adult stage, intellectual, kind, smart, tactical, and strategic. A partner freely wielding various utility spells and paralyzing electrical magic! As Leeha was puffing up with these expectations, the light finally began to fade. Leeha lowered his arm and opened his eyes.

Bahamut called the name of the Bronze Dragon only after the light completely vanished. Leeha could clearly see whom Bahamut was addressing.

“Blaugrunn-ssi.”


His hair, a blend of bright blonde and emerald hues, flowed neatly, giving off an unbalanced but adorable appearance with its rounded tips.

The child, around ten years old in size, wore a pure white garment that harmonized well with his hair color, exuding

a sense of sanctity.

“Hello, lord. It seems like a while since I’ve properly greeted you. It’s amazing how spacious this place is and yet not a hint of moldy smell – typical of Lord’s lair.”

With a face resembling a child actor, featuring a pert nose and double eyelids, blaugrun greeted Bahamut. It was like watching an endearingly cute nephew, someone you’d want to pinch on the cheek. But more than mere delight, Leeha felt an overwhelming sense of emotion. However, there was an unavoidable curiosity…

‘… His manner of speaking is…’

It was different from what Leeha had expected. Where had the polite, composed demeanor gone? What about the intellectual air that seemed even more pronounced than Hyein’s? Blaugrunn’s behavior now seemed different from the intellectual and considerate dragon that Leeha had anticipated.

‘If Blaugrunn pointing out mold smell in Bahamut’s lair is considered intellectual, then yes, he is intellectual – but…’

That wasn’t quite the demeanor Leeha had expected. Blaugrunn glanced at a pleased Bahamut, then turned to look at Leeha.

“Leeha-ssi.”

“Yes? Oh, you- uh, blaugrun-ssi.”

Blaugrunn walked up to Leeha, taking small steps and standing in front of him with his emerald eyes shining.

“First, I wanted to properly thank you for resurrecting me. Thank you.”

“Well, that’s- yeah. Of course. Uh… I’m not sure where your memory starts, but anyway, it was you, blaugrun-ssi, who gave your heart to catch Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh-”

“Yes, I remember. I think using my heart to create a flamethrower-like weapon was brilliant. But when handling an owner’s property, especially when using it for a slightly different purpose than what the owner said, it’s important to ask for permission first, don’t you think?”

“Uh? Oh, right, sorry about that.”

“No, it’s okay. I’ve somewhat understood your nature while accompanying you as a hatchling, Leeha-ssi. We’re partners, bound by Lord 『Bahamut』, after all. I believe it’s important to understand that.”

Leeha looked over Blaugrunn’s small head at Bahamut, who was smiling contentedly. What is this? Who is this cheeky little thing? Seeing Leeha’s expression, Bahamut shrugged his shoulders. Leeha couldn’t ask any more questions. Blaugrunn had become a perfect Juvenile-class dragon. His personality seems to be adjusted to his current stage of growth, even though he retains his memory?! Leeha observed Blaugrunn, who was surprisingly sharp, too shrewd for his liking, and even a bit presumptuous.

“Thank you for the future cooperation. But I’d appreciate it if you consult with me before engaging in dangerous activities. You understand, right?”

Leeha suddenly felt overwhelmed by exhaustion. He wondered if he should hold out his hand to the fern-like hand in front of him, pondering for a moment.

“I’ll be in the lair first. Although I’m still quite lacking, I can handle mana now, so I have to clean the lair. If Leeha-ssi had visited my lair even once, I could have reduced some workload.”

“That’s right… I never visited. I’m sorry.”

“No need to apologize. Just visit more often. You couldn’t have had a proper conversation when I was a hatchling anyway. It’s natural. Please contact me when needed. Ah, and preferably, use a messaging spell before summoning me.”

“Okay, cough. Understood, blaugrun-ssi.”

Would Blaugrunn’s shining crown even reach Leeha’s waist?

Leeha felt somewhat paralyzed by the presence of Blaugrunn, who looked like a 10-year-old human child, half his height.

‘What kind of kid is this?!’

Leeha wanted to revoke his earlier thought of Blaugrunn being like an adorable nephew, as his astute behavior felt both cringe-worthy and spine-chilling to Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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 “Then, I’ll see you again next time, lord.”

“Yes, yes. Keep up the good work.”

“Of course. Then, I’ll take my leave.”

Blaugrunn confidently responded to Bahamut and then used magic. Without any casting, just a snap of his fingers caused a turquoise flash, and he disappeared. At least in terms of using magic, he seemed as proficient as an Adult-level dragon. However, Leeha wasn’t entirely satisfied with this. It was only after Blaugrunn had completely disappeared that Leeha approached Bahamut.

“Lord? Um… about that –“

“Youngsters are supposed to act like that, aren’t they?”

“No, no, but Blaugrunn isn’t just any youngster, right? He was once an Adult-level dragon!”

“That’s why he’s so smart. Isn’t his boldness adorable?”

“Ah, that’s not what I meant –“

“Wasn’t he like that even as a hatchling? If Blaugrunn had acted exactly like his Adult self, he wouldn’t have perched on your head and moved around with you, right?”

“Well, that’s…”

Bahamut, indeed, was the leader of the Metal Dragons. Leeha couldn’t refute his logical and valid point. Even as a hatchling, chirping Kyuu, kyuu’, and when tired of flapping his wings, blaugrun would perch on Leeha’s head. Such behavior was typical for babies. And it was natural. A hatchling is, after all, a dragon’s baby.

‘So, now that he’s a Juvenile, he acts like a child.’

But Blaugrunn was different from a typical Juvenile. At least in terms of knowledge and culture, he was influenced to some extent by his time as an Adult.

‘Is the result of combining the two a ‘childish adult’?’

That was even worse, wasn’t it?

Either be like a child or fully an adult! Speaking with an adult’s mind but in a child’s voice, behaving culturedly but appearing bold and brash because of his appearance! Leeha shook his head, dispelling these unproductive (?) thoughts. It was okay. After all, this was just a phase.

“So, how do we make the growth accelerator? It seemed like you remembered everything earlier.”

“I did remember.”

“That’s great! So, if we make another, blaugrun-ssi can move up to Adult-class right away?!”


“That’s right.”

“Perfect! Yes! That’s it!”

Leeha couldn’t help but clench his fist and cheer loudly. Though it was inferred from Bahamut’s demeanor, now it was certain. Once he reaches Adult-class, blaugrun will shed this awkward demeanor and return to his former self!

It was then that Leeha noticed Bahamut still wearing an enigmatic smile. Leeha felt a shiver down his spine.

“Please… please don’t say that.”

“What have I said now?”

“I know. Please don’t. Please don’t do that.”

As Leeha pretended to sob, Bahamut laughed heartily. Bahamut’s laughter echoed off the lair’s walls, creating a resonance.

“You’re the one, indeed. You understand me better than our own clan.”

It wasn’t because he was from the clan, but because he was from Middle Earth! Leeha wanted to shout this but ended up just sighing. He hadn’t expected it to be easy from the start.

“So, how do we do it?”

“To forcibly accelerate a dragon’s growth, many things are needed. But the most crucial is the essence of the world. The being that gives birth to and encompasses everything. An essence that only the origin can have.”

Leeha felt like he had heard this somewhere before. The origin? Birth and encompassing? Essence?

“… Is it near the Dragon Palace?”

“You’re half right. Did you meet the Sea God? If you ask nicely, he might part with one.”

Leeha’s face brightened instantly.

Bahamut chuckled again at his reaction.

“So, if we get two of these essences and make two growth accelerators, blaugrun-ssi can instantly become Ancient-level?”

“That depends on the Sea God. First –”

Shwooooosh!


That’s when a hologram window appeared in front of Leeha.

『Radical Growth’s Light and Shadow』

Description: “How much can one control the birth and growth of all things? That was my favorite subject to ponder in my younger days. However, it was also dangerously close to the manifestation of divine power.”

Bahamut once created a drug that forced life beyond its limits. The potion made from the essence emitted by the source of life in the deepest seas exceeded even Bahamut’s expectations. But there’s always a reaction to every action. Obtain the information from the Sea God and his Wave Clan, who guard the sea, and bring back the ‘Essence of the World.’

Task: Acquire the ‘Essence of the World’ ingredient item and deliver it to Bahamut.

Reward: ??

Do you accept?

“-Go and see.”

The task seemed challenging, but Leeha had no particular concerns. There were no failure conditions or penalties.

Failure simply meant not being able to make more growth accelerators. Without hesitation, Leeha accepted.

He wanted to head to the Dragon Palace immediately, but there were preparations to be made.

Leeha sent a whisper, as requested(?).

Leeha: Uh, blaugrun-ssi. Can you hear me? There’s a place we need to go together. Should I come to you?

“I didn’t invite you because I disliked you. The lair was too dirty; I couldn’t manage it when I was a hatchling.”

“That makes sense. I mean, when inviting guests, I’d want to clean my house first.”

In fact, Leeha had intended to visit Blaugrunn’s lair first.

He was about to use a teleportation skill after the whisper, but Blaugrunn’s reply was a refusal… Hearing ‘No, don’t come’, Leeha almost wanted to argue with Bahamut again. It had been about five minutes since Blaugrunn, still in human form, appeared before Leeha. The two were currently by the sea near Kraven. Leeha was about to use a crystal ball without saying anything, but Blaugrunn was not letting go and followed him.

“We’re about to move underwater, is that okay?”

“You know from when I was a hatchling; I think you’d know.”

Blaugrunn had no issues with underwater breathing even as a hatchling. Of course, Leeha knew that. But since he hadn’t seen Blaugrunn’s dragon form since becoming a Juvenile, he reflexively asked. Moreover, there was not a hint of disregard in Blaugrunn’s response. Leeha roughly understood this. Blaugrunn had always shown polite and respectful behavior.


‘But this courtesy…’

How to describe this unadaptable courtesy? It was too bold and definite,

almost annoying due to its presentation. Was it a lack of social grace?

Leeha recalled Bahamut’s words.

This mix of juvenile cheekiness and adult intellect was disconcerting, yet it seemed to fit Blaugrunn’s current stage of growth. Blaugrunn was behaving exactly as a Juvenile would, but with the knowledge and understanding of an Adult.

Leeha found himself in an unusual situation where he had to adapt to this new dynamic with Blaugrunn. Despite his advanced intellect, blaugrun’s juvenile traits were dominant, creating a unique challenge for Leeha in understanding and collaborating with him.

Navigating this relationship with a dragon who was both childlike and wise beyond his years would be a crucial part of Leeha’s journey in Middle Earth. As Leeha contemplated this, he prepared himself for the next steps of their adventure, focusing on obtaining the ‘Essence of the World’ and the challenges that lay ahead.

The adult-level knowledge and culture were there, but the behavior and speech were inevitably childlike – a contradiction in existence.

It might have been different when Blaugrunn was a hatchling and couldn’t talk, but now the communication just wasn’t there. Leeha had thought that once Blaugrunn could talk, they’d become an invincible combo. Yet now, he felt more frustrated than when Blaugrunn was a hatchling.

“Uh, cough. Blaugrunn-ssi?”

“Yes?”

“At times like this, it’s okay to just say, ‘Yes, that’s fine.’”

Leeha made a choice. If Blaugrunn lacked social skills, why not teach him? After all, Leeha was an adult, so a bit of proper guidance should do the trick.

“Is that so?”

“Yes, of course. I didn’t ask because I didn’t know. I haven’t seen your dragon form yet, and since you’ve been in human form, I worried, ‘what if…’ so I asked.”

“But I am a dragon. I think you shouldn’t see me as a human. I am different from humans.”

Zap.

“Um, what I mean is… your response just now, like before, could have been simply, ‘Oh, okay. Understood.’”

“Why? Isn’t it better for mutual communication to express my opinions fully?”

“That… That’s not it! You understand what I’m saying, right? You’re just playing with me now, aren’t you?”

“I’m sorry. But I really don’t understand what you’re trying to say. Our thought processes seem a bit different.”

Zap, zap!

Leeha took a moment to process Blaugrunn’s words. There was a point. It was logical.

‘But why does it irritate me so much?’ Yet, why was it so hard to accept?

Was it because Blaugrunn looked like a 10-year-old child?!

‘Am I being an old fogey here?! No, no! I’m not that closed-minded!’

Leeha shook his head, looking at Blaugrunn. With twinkling eyes and a head tilt, the bowl-cut kid certainly had a likable appearance. At least among users, his emerald hair color, and even his greenish eyes, were unique. His naturally handsome face, combined with the mysterious aura, made it impossible not to feel a certain fondness.

Yet, Leeha felt a disconnect. Not that he didn’t have affection – after all, they had been through a lot together. He certainly cared, but there was a complex mix of emotions that were hard to articulate.

‘Is this what it feels like to talk to a teenage child…? Compared to just a while ago when he was chirping cutely…’

It suddenly felt like Blaugrunn had left his side. Of course, blaugrun wasn’t his child… And he knew that Blaugrunn, in his current state, would be much more helpful… He should feel proud and gratified looking at Blaugrunn now…

“Sigh… This is hard, really hard.”

Already perplexed by examining the quest given by Bahamut while traveling to Kraven’s port, Leeha could only sigh.

‘Why is the reward for the quest hidden?’

Shouldn’t the growth accelerator be the obvious reward? This detail also added to Leeha’s concerns. The only possibility Leeha could think of was:

‘Even if I barely manage to get it, the growth accelerator won’t be immediately available. The hidden part most likely means…’

A series of follow-up quests with very high difficulty. The quest description already implies that obtaining the ‘Essence of the World’ from the Sea God and the Undine Clan won’t be easy. The next steps might be even more challenging.

“I’m in over my head… Well, it’s never just fun and games.”

“What did you say?”

The one who made things more difficult was right there, pretending not to know!

Leeha felt an urge to give Blaugrunn a bit of a hard time.

“I didn’t say anything. Let’s go in. You said you’re confident, so I trust you’ll follow well. 『Mermaid Transformation』

Leeha used the Mermaid Transformation skill and dove into the sea.

Each flick of the tail split the seawater, propelling him forward at an incredible pace.

‘Hah, he couldn’t even swim properly as a hatchling, acting all high and mighty now –’

Swooooosh!

“Weren’t you in a hurry? I think we can speed up a bit more. If it’s difficult for you to increase the speed, that’s okay too.”

Then he had to watch a ten-year-old kid effortlessly outpace him.

Blaugrunn, having created a barrier around himself to prevent his clothes from getting wet, looked down at Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha’s mermaid transformation speed was beyond imagination.

Even though the ships of Kraven’s users were moving swiftly on the surface, to Leeha underwater, they appeared almost stationary.

‘Well, the mermaid form was faster than the fastest ship in Middle Earth that ignored waves and winds during the crossing of the New Continent… Ordinary ships can’t compare.’

And Blaugrunn, who was effortlessly keeping up with him, would have had to be carried by Leeha in his mermaid form in the past.

‘Comfortable, yes, but not what I expected.’

Leeha had hoped for a partner who could kindly and thoroughly introduce him to more of Middle Earth, now that Blaugrunn could speak…

Blaugrunn made it very clear.

‘Don’t see me as a human.’

He was a dragon. A dragon with the memories of an Adult, who remembered everything since his hatchling days with Leeha. Middle Earth never makes things easy.

‘I understand in my head… Ah, I should’ve saved the location of the Dragon Palace. How foolish of me.’

The location of the Dragon Palace is halfway between the New and Old Continents, in the Sea of Dawn. It takes nearly 60 days by ship, and even with Leeha’s speed, it would take nearly 30 days in Middle Earth time. Not preparing for a return trip to a city located underwater was an oversight. And then there are the sea creatures they might encounter on their way.

‘I can’t use Black Bass underwater. The good news is my speed has greatly increased. I’ll avoid fighting if possible, but if unavoidable, I’ll resort to the electric shocker.’

Now able to move freely underwater, Leeha could engage in a real close combat situation, unlike the floundering and desperation of the past.

However, he would only resort to this in emergencies, preferring to avoid combat and head straight to the Dragon Palace.

“Shall I increase our speed?”

“What?”

“I can reduce the journey to about ten days. Oh, with your current speed, it would take 29 days and over 8 hours.”

“You can reduce it to ten days? Why didn’t you use such magic before –”

“It’s different from the time with Lord Bailephus. Back then, I couldn’t freely use magic. Even for a lord, it’s impossible to arbitrarily increase the speed of two massive entities. You know that, right?”

Blaugrunn spoke kindly. Although Leeha still felt he was unnecessarily adding comments, he was a pragmatist at heart. If it helped, there was no need for pointless efforts.


“Okay. But how long can you use that magic?”

“Hmm, I’m not sure.”

“You don’t know? A dragon doesn’t know?”

Leeha asked with a chuckle. 

‘See, this is how you talk!’ he thought, wearing a mocking expression. Though Leeha knew he wouldn’t get a straightforward answer, he still hoped to glean some information. After checking Kidd’s location briefly, Leeha sped up once again. Another day was passing by.

***

“A group of three big men has arrived at the village entrance. They are new faces that weren’t here yesterday.”

“Okay, got it. Keep tailing them and move with Tale.”

“Understood.”

A ranger user nodded and disappeared. In the small village of Chesi, on the outskirts of the Minis Kingdom, an air of tension hung in a place that should have been quiet, neither a gateway to hunting grounds nor a starting point for special adventures. This wasn’t the first time such unrest had occurred. Periodic disturbances had made even the village NPCs learn to avoid them.

“Hyein, they should be here soon.”

“I know. They seem to be deliberately causing chaos during my login time, but luckily, they’re all fools except for Chiyou.”

Kijung swallowed dryly at Hyein’s fierce expression. Normally calm and intelligent, Hyein transformed whenever Chiyou’s name was mentioned. The ‘Shinobigumi Annihilation’ operation that Leeha had practically entrusted to Byulcho was already in its third phase. The first encounter happened ten days and three hours into the login. But against Byulcho, already entrenched in Chesi Village, they stood no chance, especially since they were blatantly dressed as members of Shinobigumi, making them easy to identify.

With Kijung, Biyemi, Tale, and other members from Byulcho, they suppressed the Shinobigumi users in the chaos, and Chiyou logged in during this turmoil.

Chiyou couldn’t escape. She always spawned in the village square, where Hyein instantly immobilized her. Before the village guards could even react, Bobae’s arrow had already pierced Chiyou’s head. Hyein escaped using blink, far too fast for the mere seven NPC guards to follow.

The second time was similar, with fewer Shinobigumi members online. For Byulcho, their gathering was a clue to predict Chiyou’s login. They controlled their numbers to create confusion, but it backfired spectacularly.

After two additional deaths, the third encounter happened, 14 days after the second one. In Middle Earth time, it had only been just over six days.

“Changing login times won’t help if they keep sending lackeys, right?”

“It’s not Chiyou’s doing. They’re just trying to catch the boss’s eye with impromptu actions. They might be somewhat high up in Shinobigumi, but their intelligence… It shows how dependent Shinobigumi was on Chiyou alone.”

Kijung nodded in agreement.


Hyein’s analysis was accurate. Although Chiyou wouldn’t have called them, Sasuke alone couldn’t control all the organization members.

Those aware of Chiyou being the head of Shinobigumi were essentially middle managers, each with their factions. For them, now was a chance! If they could rescue Chiyou, they could easily surpass Sasuke and become second in command.

They pretended to follow Sasuke’s orders while leaking information. Their deaths or wasted time in the village weakened their factions’ intelligence-gathering capabilities.

Thus, shinobigumi was self-destructing from within.

About four hours later, nine users had trickled into Chesi Village. Pretending to be nonchalant, their awkward loitering around the square was too conspicuous.

– Standby.

Kijung sent a message to everyone. Byulcho’s users scattered around the village began gathering in the square.

When would Chiyou come? What method would she use this time to escape?

Kijung mused and smiled.

‘It’s pointless anyway.’

It all started with Hyein’s spatial lock.

Unless Shinobigumi deployed all its members, they couldn’t stand against the well-tempered Byulcho, a force to be reckoned with even for major guilds in Minis, not just Pyubiel.

Approximately 5 hours later, the community was abuzz.

『Title: Rumor has it the top ten rankers are fighting each other?』

『Title: Where does Chiyou keep dying? Is she soloing a dragon raid or something?』

『Title: 『Breaking』 Chiyou falls to 9th in the rankings!』

The operation had evidently taken its toll on Chiyou’s ranking and reputation. The continual setbacks and losses against Byulcho, especially under Hyein’s leadership, showed the effectiveness of their strategy and the reliance of Shinobigumi on Chiyou. With her frequent defeats and the internal struggles within Shinobigumi, the organization’s dominance in the virtual world of Middle Earth seemed to be waning.

Ranked 7th, Chiyou faced three deaths, plummeting rapidly to the 9th position.

Now the ranking stood as Ram Hwajung at 7th, Faust at 8th, Chiyou at 9th, and Bobae at 10th.

The significance of falling two places after the third death was profound.


‘Ram Hwajung and Faust are on the same level. It’s the experience points that determine the ranking order.’

(To be continued…)
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 Ram Hwajung and Faust, as well as Bobae and other top 10 rankers, had all noticed it. The ranking battle, triggered by Chiyou’s death, was proceeding more breathlessly than ever. And, unintentionally caught up in the ranking battle, another person was deeply engrossed, sitting on a rock.

“Could I really go up to the 10th place…? The one fighting Chiyou is probably Byulcho…”

“Kahaaaaaaa——-r”

A user, sitting on a fairly large rock and irregularly shaking their legs. In front of her, a group of Saber Tigers were baring their fangs and threatening, but the user did not even look at them.

“A guild that’s grown stronger since the Archer joined… But Chiyou isn’t the right opponent if it’s the Archer. There’s Faust at 9th place, and it would be easier to target Ram Hwajung of Hwahong, a former guild battle opponent. I wonder why they targeted Chiyou, who was ranked 7th.”

“Kyahi—— Kahi——-!”

The user’s ears twitched in response to the roar of the Saber Tigers. Although a characteristic of the Wood Elf race, her sleek legs and a waist that seemed less than 22 inches weren’t merely because she chose the elf race.

“I don’t like being called an opportunist, but… it would be foolish not to move when the opportunity comes. I should ask Byulcho to bring down Chiyou below 11th place.”

“Kaha——”

“Oh, it’s noisy. Gnoes!”

The user, who was swinging her legs, seemed to be bothered by the Saber Tigers.

Pretending not to care, she couldn’t ignore the monsters closing in on her. As she snapped her fingers, the rock she was sitting on began to shake.

“Eumhooooo-”

“Kya, kyahat?! “Kya–sha—-!”

“Noisy, so I called, and now it’s making even louder noises. Just hold on to me tightly. I’ll deal with those… Seleanna! Silairon!”

Tack-! Tack-!

While the Saber Tigers were confused by the moving giant rock, she snapped her fingers twice in a row.

Shortly after, a woman in a burning skirt and a translucent horse appeared out of nowhere in front of her.

“Kahaaa……!”

“Clean up.”


That was all she said. She immersed herself in her thoughts again, not wanting to look any further. As the woman in the burning skirt fluttered her hem, a giant fireball formed in the air. The translucent horse pranced lightly and raised its front legs, and a whirlwind enveloped the giant fireball. The fire, like a living creature, kept rising into the sky on the whirlwind, and the translucent horse directed it here and there with its head, indicating ‘movement.’

“Keheng- Kek!”

“Cough, cough, cough!”

“If I’m going to ask a favor, there should be a price… Hmm, what would be good? Who did they say the guild master was?”

The Saber Tigers, pained by their burning fur and skin, terrified by the feeling of not touching the ground, were tossed around in the whirlwind, turning to ash.

The Wood Elf, still sitting on the rock and swinging her legs, had shining eyes. They were pure white, without a hint of black.

***

Kijung: Hyung, Chiyou’s third death is also complete.

Leeha: Okay, good job.

Leeha swam rapidly, exhaling. Now, less than a day remained to reach the Dragon Palace.

Kijung: But Chiyou is starting to think more? It’s a bit worrying. From the fourth time, I won’t be around. Well, I’ve already told the guild members.

Leeha: Why won’t you be there?

Kijung: Haah… Please, hyung. Look at the calendar. The day after tomorrow is Saturday, right? Hong Kong!

Leeha: Ah, right! The departure date! I knew that. I’ve marked it down too.

The Hong Kong departure date was now just around the corner. In two days’ real-time, which would be ten days in Middle Earth time. Leeha was pondering if he could make the growth stimulant within ten days amidst this. He had now become a user utterly addicted to the world of Middle Earth.

Kijung: Heh, well. But I had forgotten too. I remembered because Bobae asked.

Leeha: Bobae asked? About going to Hong Kong?

Kijung: Yeah. She asked if it was correct that we’re leaving in two days?

Leeha: … Why would she ask that?

Kijung: Huh? I don’t know? Probably because of catching Chiyou.


Perhaps because Kijung spoke so naturally with a huh? Leeha felt a sense of unease. These days, he wasn’t exchanging whispers with Shin Nara much. Was it anxiety because he couldn’t properly know how the country was doing?

Leeha: Hmm… Anyway, okay. Chiyou has to die at least 5 more times, no, what’s 5 times? Anyway, make sure the system is set up so she can be continuously hunted. It becomes troublesome if she goes back alive.

Kijung: I know. If Shinobigumi operates normally… She will make killing you, hyung, and disbanding Byulcho her first goal.

Leeha: Good. Then please work a little harder! I’ll contact you again before departure. Let’s decide when to meet.

Kijung: Hehe, I’ve already planned the course. Oh! The gold prices are good recently, I should sell some for shopping money. Okay, hyung, call me!

Kijung ended the whisper with an excited voice. Byulcho had been doing well so far, but there were concerns about whether they could continue to do well in the future. Kijung didn’t have much to do in the extermination of Chiyou. This was because indiscriminate PK (Player Killing) did not occur within the village. However, the fact that he, the guild master, would be absent for a few days due to his trip to Hong Kong could potentially be a mental and psychological burden for the rest of Byulcho’s members.

‘I need to crush her so that she can never stand up again.’

This was a fact known to both Byulcho and Leeha, having already experienced it with Chiyou.

With just a slight amount of power, information, and capital, she could rise again at any time and become a powerful enemy against them.

‘I have to admit that. There’s no way to completely shatter her mentality.’

Due to the limitations of the game system, and since Chiyou accurately understood the system’s loopholes, it was impossible to completely shatter her into a state of incapacity. Persistently killing her like now was the only other alternative.

“Are you losing strength now that the Dragon Palace is in sight?”

“Who said I’m losing strength?”

“Your tail fin seems weaker? It’s not just a feeling, your speed has really slowed down by about 3 km/h. It’s okay to say if you’re tired.”

“That’s what you say when… No, never mind. No. Let’s go, go.”

Blaugrunn’s socialization training was still ongoing.

Leeha grumbled and sped up again. It was then that Blaugrunn suddenly stopped.

“Just a moment.”

“What’s wrong?”

No matter how much he looked like a ten-year-old child, he was a dragon. When his face hardened, Leeha also became tense.


Is he going to complain about something?

However, Leeha’s worries were unfounded. Blaugrunn wasn’t angry at him.

“It’s a Kraken. Straight ahead. We’ll encounter it if we keep going this way.”

“Ah, Kraken… Hmm, it would be troublesome to face a Kraken. Should we turn around?”

Leeha rummaged through his bag and pulled out an electric shock device. Even if he had become more agile, using the electric shock device on a Kraken was not an easy task. In the ocean, where neither flame throwers nor Black Bass were effective, the Kraken was the monster that Leeha most needed to avoid. That was until now.

“No, we owe a debt to the Kraken. Let’s go.”

“Wha-what, blaugrun? Let’s go together!”

The barrier around Blaugrunn strengthened even more.

-Leeha quickly accelerated, chasing after Blaugrunn, who was speeding ahead of him.

Fwooosh-

Blaugrunn increased his speed even more, and Leeha was newly amazed by his magic. Even in his state accelerated by the ‘Mermaid Transformation’ skill, making him as fast as a mermaid or merman, he had also received the ‘Mana Charge: Acceleration’ skill.

‘And yet he’s even faster than me.’

Furthermore, blaugrun wasn’t just using the skill on Leeha. He had also accelerated himself, and while in the water, he was moving around with a barrier that prevented even a single drop of seawater from touching him.

‘In that respect, he’s still just a child, I guess.’

Leeha wondered if it was really necessary for Blaugrunn to create a barrier just because he disliked getting wet, especially since Bailephus didn’t use such a thing even when flying above the water surface.

An Ancient-class Gold Dragon like Bailephus wouldn’t have a smaller mana pool or be incapable of mana manipulation compared to now.

‘Is he still unaware of the most efficient mana usage?’ The most appropriate and perfect mana usage does not involve using unnecessary magic. Perhaps that’s why dragons become stronger as they age. In that sense, Leeha found Blaugrunn rather adorable.

He was still a Juvenile, not even a teenager yet, only at the level of an upper elementary school student.

‘He’s living in blissful ignorance of the world’s dangers. Enjoy it while it lasts.’

As Leeha chuckled, blaugrun, who was leading the way, momentarily stopped and looked back at him. Smiling before the battle with the Kraken?

“Are you feeling alright?”

“Hmm, yeah, yeah. I’ll just stay quiet for now. Once you grow up and become an Adult, my way of speaking will change again.”

“What did you say?”

“Nothing, nothing. Hehe, let’s hurry, blaugrun-ssi.”

“You don’t have to worry too much. Since I’ll be fighting and protecting Ha Leeha , I need to be more alert than usual.”

“Ugh… Hoo… Okay. Got it.”

Leeha followed Blaugrunn again, thinking he preferred him as a hatchling. It was then that he noticed a giant squid, clearly standing out in the blue seawater. In front of Leeha and Blaugrunn was the Kraken, a monster he had never really fought against.

With its long tentacles stretched out, its maximum length reached about 20 meters. Even compared to those that attacked ships during the New Continent voyage, it was not an easy monster.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, do you have a plan?”

“A plan?”

Think of a plan.

“It might be good to do it like when we fought against the Sea God. You could use lightning magic to slow it down, and I approach with the electric shock device. Then you can inject mana into it.”

That was the most logical battle strategy Leeha could think of.

Considering the incredible electric damage that could even knock out a contaminated Sea God,

a Kraken, despite its size, would surely be completely electrocuted.

However, even while listening to Leeha, blaugrun just slightly shook his head.

“… You didn’t think of a plan?”

“No.”

At his boldly honest answer, Leeha sighed.

‘I guess I have to teach him. He’ll improve if I teach him.’

“Look, um… didn’t you remember when you were a hatchling? Did you see me fighting recklessly like that?”

“Yes.”

“Eek- Then I have nothing to say!”

Leeha burst out angrily, but then Blaugrunn finally smiled. It was a faint smile, but Leeha could tell that Blaugrunn was just joking. When Leeha realized this and was flustered,

“Don’t worry, I’ll handle the fight by myself.”

“What do you mean by that-”

Fshhh- Fshhhhhh

Blaugrunn’s hands began to gather turquoise particles.

Even while spreading a tingling current underwater, the electrical energy didn’t disperse. Instead, it shone even more powerfully, as if to turn the blue sea into an emerald color.

(To be continued…)
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 “Shouldn’t I show this form so that Ha Leeha-nim can use it effectively for future ‘strategies’? 『Energy Wave』.”

Puff…!

As soon as the words ended, blaugrun turned around. Stretching out what had been gathered in both hands towards the Kraken. That alone was enough. Leeha saw the lightning energy engulfing the entire body of the Kraken. An attack that causes paralysis, like the one once used against Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. Even that was enough to make the Kraken stiffen, spreading its ten legs in all directions.

“The electricity…… It doesn’t scatter……

“

“Sure, it was fun making an electric shock device with my scales, but there’s definitely a difference from genuine mana manipulation. The caster’s role is to transfer energy to the target. Just like this. 『Quadruple Electric-Ball』.”

Crack, crack, crack, crack!

Leeha couldn’t help but be amazed at the four lightning balls that appeared instantly.

Compared to the Hatchling class, where almost all magic was unusable, this could be called an ‘evolution’.

『Double』.”

And as the four lightning balls doubled to eight, Leeha was at a loss for words. A dragon that was Juvenile-class, but not quite Juvenile. It was the moment Blaugrunn’s true nature was revealed. Had it been above water, even Bailephus would have found it difficult to deal with the Kraken. Struck simultaneously by the eight lightning balls, the Kraken died on the spot.

A bold kid who didn’t mince words and expressed his opinion without hesitation?

“You’re amazing, blaugrun-ssi.”

No, that was not it. From this moment on, Leeha’s perception of Blaugrunn had changed. What did it matter if his appearance was young?

There was no kid in the world who could so easily capture the Kraken, which destroyed all the ships of the First New Continent Expedition, with just a few gestures.

“Of course. I am a dragon, after all.”

Leeha stood next to the Juvenile-class dragon and extended his fist.

Blaugrunn tilted his head, then, realizing, made an ‘Ah!’ expression and extended his own fist.

Leeha’s fist and the slightly larger fist of his ‘partner’ met in the water with a small ‘pop’.

“But you said to be careful fighting while protecting me, that it’d be distracting?”


“Of course, that was a joke. Let’s hurry. We’re almost at the Dragon Palace.”

Blaugrunn, as if saying what a silly question, teased and then increased his speed.

“…… Hmm, I need to work harder to distinguish between jokes and seriousness.”

Leeha acknowledged the undeniable talent but thought she needed more time to adapt.

“Ha Leeha-niiiiiiiiim—–

“Whoa, anderson-ssi!?”

As soon as they approached the Dragon Palace, a mermaid came running barefoot.

Leeha took a moment to recognize him. His face was somewhat familiar, but his physique had changed dramatically compared to before.

“Oh, you must have been working out a lot, huh?”

“Hehe, I look better now, right? I’ve been receiving special training from Captain Sea Bream! What brings you to the Dragon Palace? I was so upset last time when you left without properly saying goodbye.”

Anderson, newly joined as a member of the Sea God’s Royal Guard, was now fully equipped with weapons and armor. He had been a small mermaid, almost awkwardly so for a member of the Royal Guard. Leeha could sense that a considerable amount of time had passed since he last borrowed the giant turtle Tortuga….

“But who is this beside you…”

“Oh, you don’t recognize him? This is Blaugrunn-ssi.”

“What?! Really? Blaugrunn-ssi!? The dragon? Wow, you’ve changed so much! You were not like this when I used to carry you around!”

“That, that was a long time ago. Now I am a Juvenile-class, so there won’t be a need for me to rely on you like before.”

Anderson approached Blaugrunn warmly, causing him to be somewhat flustered. Leeha watched this scene and felt an inexplicable sense of satisfaction.

“Cool! As expected, Ha Leeha-nim lives a spectacular life! Welcome, the prince has been expecting you!”

“Captain – no, drake-nim?”

“Yes! We’ve developed a system that utilizes our echolocation abilities to monitor the entire area of the Dragon Palace!”

After settling down in the Dragon Palace, drake’s life had changed significantly, Leeha heard. Not only Drake had changed, but since deciding to live not as a ‘human’ but as a ‘mermaid’ and as a prince of the Sea God, he had been revolutionizing the system of the Dragon Palace. Whether it was Bluebeard or someone else, he was making relentless efforts to prevent incidents like the fishmen crisis from happening again.


‘After all, he originally came from Kraven, a kingdom where he was the supreme commander…’

Compared to the peaceful life in the Dragon Palace, he must have lived a more intense life. Leeha nodded and followed Anderson. No complicated verification was needed. Leeha, already transformed into a mermaid, naturally had free passage, and more importantly, was accompanied by Anderson, who bore the mark of the Royal Guard. The fantastical scenery of the Dragon Palace they passed was an added bonus.

Leeha, blaugrun, and Anderson finally met Drake and Sea Bream.

“Ha Leeha.”

“It’s been a while. No, actually, I feel like I’m seeing you too often?”

Leeha playfully joked with Drake. His appearance was still a bit different compared to other mermaids. His lower half wasn’t entirely fish-like. There was clearly a human lower half, with a fish-like tail protruding from the hips.

Leeha was convinced that Drake’s decision to live as a ‘human’ was related to this appearance, but knew that now was not the time to discuss it.

“Hmm, is that so? Still, I’m glad to see you.”

The response from Drake was unexpected. Who would have thought Drake would express his pleasure so openly? He looked at Blaugrunn, who stood next to Leeha, with a content expression.

“And this person here is probably…”

“Though it’s not our first meeting, it’s our first time exchanging greetings. I am Blaugrunn.”

“That’s right. It’s an honor to meet a mature dragon.”

Drake was indeed on a different level from Leeha. Not swayed by appearances, he respectfully bowed his head to Blaugrunn. Blaugrunn, looking proud, glanced at Leeha for a moment.

“Ahem. Yes, indeed, the son of Elaim is different. It’s an honor to be here once again.”

“Elaim? Drake-nim is a son of the Sea God – ah, I see!”

“… As the son of Elaim, please forgive my partner’s rudeness.”

“If I were startled by such things, I wouldn’t have been able to build a friendship with Ha Leeha.”

Leeha, as if realizing something, made a sound, causing both Blaugrunn and Drake to look at him with surprised expressions.

However, Leeha had his own reasons to feel aggrieved.

‘The name of the Sea God never came up! It was always just ‘Sea God’, how was I supposed to know!’


But knowing that saying this would only be to his detriment, Leeha kept quiet and quickly got to the main point.

“Ahem, the reason I came today is-”

Leeha hesitated for a moment.

Where should he start his story and how should he ask for help most effectively?

If Drake and Blaugrunn could empathize like this, it would be best to honestly bring up the topic of the growth accelerant.

Leeha thoroughly explained about the growth accelerant item – where he got it, how he used it, and the effects it had.

He also detailed his need to come here to gather the necessary ingredients to make a new growth accelerant.

Drake’s expression was not very positive.

“The essence of the world…”

“I assume it can be obtained from the ‘purification pool’.”

What Bahamut had said, and even the quest information alone, was enough to infer this fact. At Leeha’s words, drake nodded as if confirming the answer. However, his expression remained unenthusiastic.

“Prince.”

“Sea Bream. Could you check where my father is?”

“Understood. Anderson, come with me.”

The captain of the Sea God’s Royal Guard left immediately with Anderson. This was as Leeha had anticipated.

Even though Drake belonged to the highest echelon of NPCs in the Dragon Palace, as long as there was a ‘king’, the permission of the Sea God was absolutely necessary.

‘The real question is whether they’ll willingly give it…’

Shortly after, anderson returned and guided Drake and Leeha.

The place was the same audience hall as last time. Blaugrunn, seemingly uninterested in such conversations, was just curiously looking around.

“Ha Leeha!”

“I apologize for my late visit. How have you been, sea God-nim?”

It was the same place where Leeha had received Jellypong. The surroundings were designed in a perfect sphere, allowing one to look at the audience and the king from any direction, be it up, down, left, or right. It looked like a stage, but a notable difference from last time was the absence of any spectating mermaids.

“Hm, a dragon. Juvenile-class – no, adult class?”

“I am still but a humble Juvenile, elaim-nim.”

“Haha, enough with such formalities. Being called by the king’s name reminds me of that Ifrit fellow, which is annoying. So, you’re here about the essence of the world?”

The Sea God laughed heartily and received Blaugrunn’s greetings.

Like Drake, he paid no attention to appearances and assessed Blaugrunn’s inner qualities and abilities, truly befitting the demeanor of ‘one who commands the water spirits’.

“Yes.”

“The essence of the world… And the one who came with you is from the metal dragon’s lineage. Could it be, did Bahamut send you?”

“Huh, yes?”

“That damned dragon. He caused me so much trouble by forcibly extracting the essence for his experiments. Since then, he hasn’t shown his face, and now he sends Ha Leeha…”

“No, wait a minute. I didn’t come here because Bahamut-nim sent me-”

“So, it’s unrelated?”

“…… If you put it that way… Not entirely unrelated.”

Leeha was flustered. He had spoken about the growth accelerant but never mentioned words like Platinum Dragon or Bahamut! From Drake’s nodding beside the Sea God, it seemed he hadn’t caught on either. Was this the true prowess of the Water Spirit King? A Spirit King, who oversees a single type of spirit, had already fully grasped Leeha’s intentions.

“You probably already know, but the essence of the world is an energy that can be extracted from the purification tank.”

“Yes, that makes sense.”

“But by ‘extraction’…”

“Yes?”

“It means taking out a part of the energy from the purification tank. And that, forcibly. Do you understand what might happen?”

“Um…”

The Sea God’s demeanor had changed from the hearty greeting earlier. His face was stern now.

“You know what the purification tank is for, right?”

“I do. It helps water spirits of a certain purity to be born as mermaids – oh, so if that’s the case, perhaps?”

“… Yes. Once the essence is extracted, our kind cannot increase in number for a while.”

Drake’s expression worsened, and it was a valid reason for the Sea God’s face to harden.

Even if all the NPCs of the Wood Elf or Giant races die, if new players join and choose those races, their numbers can increase.

But mermaids are not a playable race!

A race composed entirely of NPCs. In other words, if any system restrictions are applied, increasing their population becomes impossible.

‘This Bahamut ajussi, what…?’ Suddenly, Leeha remembered what the Sea God had just said.

‘That damned dragon.’

It was a telling phrase about how Bahamut must have made the growth accelerant in the past.

“That, that would be quite problematic.”

“Indeed. It’s not just problematic. If Sylphid hadn’t intervened

back then, I and Gnoas would have taken action together.”

(To be continued…)
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 Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi? Those names just now — Sylphid, the King of Wind Spirits, and Gnoas, the King of Earth Spirits. Blaugrunn: But Ha Leeha-nim, you didn’t really not know and asked just to test me, right? I’ll assume that’s why you asked.

Leeha: That, that’s right! Of course. Anyway, that’s what I’ll believe.

Leeha quickly covered Blaugrunn’s teasing remark and observed the Sea God’s reaction.

‘The Spirit Kings were going to fight Bahamut because he extracted the essence from the purification pool!’

What could be the reason other than that? It was because Bahamut extracted the essence from the ‘purification pool’. The essence of the world is related to the survival of all water spirits, so it was understandable why the Spirit Kings, regardless of Bahamut being the Platinum Dragon, would rise up against him.

“In that case…”

“Bahamut would never give it. Never… never. But it’s a different story with Ha Leeha here.”

“You will give it to me?”

“He won’t be as irresponsible as Bahamut. Isn’t that right?”

The Sea God showed a mysterious smile.

A hologram window appeared in front of Leeha shortly after.

『New Possibilities for Water Spirits』

Description: “We are water spirits but not perfect ones. Just look at the clan of the waves. We only take the form of spirits in this place, the sea. I want to explore new possibilities. The creatures called ‘fishmen’ were a failed experiment, but they were also one of the possibilities for our water spirits. Show me the potential paths water spirits can take.”

The Sea God Elaim is seeking to explore the evolutionary possibilities of water spirits. Unlike mere fish or aquatic monsters, the defining feature of water spirits is their ability to form societies and possess intelligence underwater! You must find and provide the Sea God with information and possibilities about new existences that have societies and intelligence underwater.

Task: Find evidence of intelligent, societal life underwater and report to the Sea God (Time limit: 3 days)

Reward: Material item ‘Essence of the World’ Condition for Failure: Time expires

Penalty for Failure: -25% intimacy with the Sea God Elaim and mermaids

Do you want to quest?

Leeha quickly read through the quest window. New possibilities? A significant drop in affinity if failed, but nothing else seemed particularly special. He had enough know-how to quickly regain a 25% loss in affinity with NPCs.

However, failing would mean losing the chance to obtain the Essence of the World. That in itself was a severe penalty.


What was critical was that the quest duration was only 3 days.

“I believe much information can be gathered beyond the land, but unfortunately, I cannot move myself. I thought of sending Howard, but he no longer listens to me-”

“As someone who has broken a promise, my relationship with humans is now…”

Leeha momentarily forgot who Howard referred to. However, seeing Drake bow his head immediately, he recalled his name from the national war they had seen.

“Alright, alright. He’s so stubborn, just like his mother. That means the only ‘human’ I can ask for help is you, Ha Leeha. Show the water spirits new possibilities.”

“What, what do you mean?! I don’t quite understand-”

“New life forms. They say there are many new life forms in the Erika Continent.”

It was Drake who rescued a bewildered Leeha.

Leeha combined the description in the quest window with what Drake had said.

“Ah…!”

“I believe you can do it. To open new possibilities for our aquatic kin-”

“Ah, ah, ahahahaha!”

“Huh?!”

It wasn’t just a simple understanding of the quest’s content.

The sight of Leeha’s grin stretching ear to ear left the Sea God and Drake momentarily perplexed.

“Really?! You’re serious right now? You’ll give me the Essence of the World if I just show the possibilities within 3 days?!”

“We won’t be able to have new members of our race for a while… but yes. I promise. Based on what you show us, we can explore new paths for the water spirits.”

“Okay! Okay, got it. 3 days? Haha! It won’t even take that long! I’ll be back within a day. Just wait here!”

Quest accepted immediately!

Leeha, while goofing around, made sure to record the location of the Dragon Palace in his crystal ball. Now he could return here with just a tear of a scroll.


“Blaugrunn-ssi! Let’s go!”

“Sigh… As such a partner, I look forward to working with you in the future, elaim-nim.”

“Haha, you have a lot of work ahead of you, bronze Dragon.”

Watching Leeha’s playful behavior, blaugrun bowed to the Sea God and Drake. Leeha was so embarrassed that he had to use the scroll even faster.

Whoosh…!

Moments later, Leeha, having reverted from his mermaid form, and Blaugrunn appeared in a place on the New Continent. It was the underground city inhabited by the gorilla paleo.

“Since this is the closest place – Blaugrunn-ssi! Let me out!”

“Wouldn’t it be better for you to learn simple spatial magic yourself? Or maybe teaching you would take even longer…’

“What did you say?”

“Nothing. Let’s move.”

Sigh!

Blaugrunn sighed and flicked his finger. Emerging from the underground city onto the plains of the New Continent, Leeha confidently set their direction.

“Heheheh, got it, got it.”

“But how do you plan to solve this? I’ve spent a considerable time here, but I don’t know of any intelligent, societal life underwater. I know the legend of the ocean city ‘Atlantis’, but that’s unverified… This doesn’t seem like a problem you can solve in 3 days.”

Why did you accept so hastily? You should have consulted with me.

That was essentially what Blaugrunn wanted to say. But Leeha was confident. He momentarily forgot about the clue of ‘Atlantis’ he had just obtained.

“Hehe… Right. Blaugrunn-ssi wouldn’t know.”

“Is there something I don’t know?”

“Of course, of course! It’s not like Blaugrunn-ssi knows everything, right?”

Leeha smiled, and Blaugrunn puffed his cheeks. Not that he knew everything, but still more than humans – he grumbled like a child.


“So where are we going? Tell me then.”

“Should I tell you, or should I not? Hmm… ‘

“If you keep acting like this-”

“Alright, alright. Hehehe, just watch. Do you know where this is?”

Realizing he could tease a Juvenile-class dragon like this, Leeha reveled in the moment, then took out a map from his bag.

Of course, it was a rough map of the New Continent that Leeha had drawn himself. Blaugrunn slowly read the handwritten notes Leeha had scribbled.

『’Place Where the Carps Live’』?”

“Yes. That’s the place. Was the official name ‘The Lake Where Light Does Not Enter’?”

This was why Leeha could be so confident after fully understanding the quest’s content! An existing peaceful, mild civilization of beings who lived underwater in a society, built villages and were intelligent enough to be distinct from fish and different from underwater monsters.

‘The Golden Carp! The mystical creature ‘Shoer’ and his children, the Carp Paleos!’

Moreover, this was no ordinary approach. Leeha had become friendly with Shoer by talking about mermaids, and Shoer himself had expressed a desire to meet mermaids at least once.

“But carps are freshwater fishes.”

“Among mystical creatures, there are cranes that create fire. Differentiating between freshwater and saltwater is too harsh. That’s a narrow way of thinking. What do you think?”

“…”

Was Blaugrunn so upset about being subtly dismissed by Leeha? Trying to get back at him, blaugrun instead faced Leeha’s counterattack(?). During their journey to the lake, Leeha’s mind was actively working.

The Sea God’s true identity was Elaim, the Water Spirit King. And he had directly mentioned two other Spirit Kings. No, three, including one previously mentioned.

Ifrit, the King of Fire Spirits, sylphid, the King of Wind Spirits, and Gnoas, the King of Earth Spirits. When, where, and how could they meet them?

‘And the legendary underwater city Atlantis. If only that could be found-‘

What could be beyond the New Continent, not just between it and the Old Continent, but on the opposite side of the Old Continent? Leeha was organizing these pieces of information and stopped by the lake.

“Alright, let’s complete this quest quickly and get the Essence of the World! 『Mermaid Transformation』!”

“From 『Erika Continent – The Lake Where Light Does Not Enter』 to suddenly 『Dawn Sea – Dragon Palace』. What brought you there and back so quickly?”

Kidd started moving again at that moment. Leeha’s location had changed to The Lake Where Light Does Not Enter about 6 hours ago.

The lake on the New Continent?! Worried that Leeha might be chasing him from there, Kidd was relieved when Leeha’s location switched back to the Dragon Palace.

This meant it was safe to move again as Leeha wasn’t pursuing him.

‘You’re playing the game too, so you can’t keep your friend window open all the time. Naturally, you can’t track my movements 100%…’

Kidd checked his skill window once more for The Three Musketeers: Teleport.

It showed as 『Deactivated』. Realistically, Leeha had no immediate way to reach him.

‘Huh. If it were any other player chasing me, I wouldn’t need to worry.’

But the opponent was Ha Leeha.

That fact kept Kidd on edge. Even though there were no immediate skills to reach him, just knowing his location, Ha Leeha could appear out of nowhere with some trick.

Having witnessed countless such plays from Leeha, it was natural for Kidd to be this cautious.

“Puquichi———-!”

“Pukitsu, Pukitsu—!”

“I have no business with you.”

Tadaaaa——–!

Creatures that looked like wild dogs but had eight legs. They were too sleek to be spiders, these strange monsters quickly turned to ash.

‘The downside of Middle Earth is that you can’t precisely pinpoint your own location.’

But you can know the locations of your ‘friends.’

In the case of The Three Musketeers, every detail can be confirmed by name. However, one’s own location doesn’t show in the friend window. Without a map, it’s impossible to confirm where you are.

Kidd slightly lifted his hat and surveyed his surroundings. Considering the scenery he was seeing, the disappearance of the Paleos from some point, and the form and level of the monsters that appeared, where could he be?

“But a place like this… There must be possibilities.”

Caw, caw…

As if responding to Kidd’s soliloquy, crows cawed. Kidd looked up at the sky. Crows with four wings, one, then two, increasing in number. It was definitely a place Kidd had never seen while traversing the New Continent. Kidd reopened his friend window and checked Leeha’s location again.

Leeha was still at the Dragon Palace.

“There’s no other choice.”

Kidd suppressed the desire to immediately rush into the barren land before him and retreated again.

Though it seemed like a wasteland, he waited until the soil color changed from what he saw before him.

After about 20 minutes of walking, even the dried-up grass started appearing around him. It was definitely a different place than the ‘burnt charcoal’ soil he had seen from afar.

“Now, then…”

The Three Musketeers are bound to become one team inevitably. A relationship where you can’t hide your location even if you want to. Other users in Kidd’s friend window wouldn’t be able to see his current location. He was under the effect of a location-concealing scroll. But Ha Leeha was different. He could see him.

‘Ha Leeha, all you have to do is log out.’

(To be continued…)
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 Therefore, Kidd waited.

He held onto the logical belief that the place he had reached was where Luger had died. The moment Leeha logged out, Kidd was ready to step in without any hesitation. The barren land that bloomed was desolately vast. In the desolate sky, crows with four wings were circling in large orbits. Kidd, in a relaxed posture, leaned against a rock and rummaged through his bag.

“I’ve been waiting for this day. How shall I entertain you, arcane Sniper?”

A mix of slight tension and excitement soaked Kidd, watched by the crows.

“Oh, this, this.”

“The world, it hasn’t even been a day…”

“Ca, careful, sea God-nim! All royal guards, get ready!”

The Sea God Elaim, drake, and the captain of the royal guards, sea Bream, all raised their voices at the same time. Of course, they weren’t the only ones.

Though they couldn’t get closer, it was natural for the mermaids to be captivated by something massive and golden glittering outside the gates of the Dragon Palace.

“What, what is that?!”

“Ha- It seems like something Leeha-nim brought – it’s not a Kraken, not a Serpent, then what exactly…”

“There are lots of things around it too. Maybe the fishmen are attacking again-”

“That’s not it! Leeha came with it, so it couldn’t possibly be…

If Leeha weren’t there, the mermaids would have already prepared for battle. In reality, sea Bream and the royal guards were standing guard by the Sea God, visibly tense.

And it wasn’t just the mermaids preparing for battle.

“Muhonghong, muhong! Sea water! This is the sea!”

“Kapkap! Guardian deity, be careful!”

“Kap! These creatures look different from us, kap!”

The mermaids were facing opponents, namely, a massive golden carp with whiskers as long as Leeha, and the Carp Paleos, fluttering their tail fins around the golden carp, were just as tense.

“So that’s why… since a while ago… Didn’t I tell you not to get confused for the past 6 hours?”


Leeha sighed. He had spent so much time explaining to prevent such a situation, but it seemed even encounters between unknown civilizations among NPCs could cause chaos.

“That… Haa, more than that… Haa, my mana… Haa.”

“Ah, right! Potion! Potion!”

“That trivial thing – Hoo, humans… Haa, a potion will do.”

Behind Leeha, shaking his head, blaugrun, maintaining his human form, was stretched out in the water, observing. How did the Carp Paleos and Shoer travel from the lake on the New Continent to this place? It was largely due to Blaugrunn. While the Paleos could move in water in human form, it would take too long to travel that way. Moreover, Shoer, being a mystical creature, could only live in water. Therefore, they had to be transported all at once. Of course, the only way to do this was through teleportation.

“Are you… okay?”

“It’s unbelievable that I linked my mana with a mystical creature for the first time, especially with Shoer. And to think, there were thirty-two Paleos. If I were a human mage, the teleport would have failed, and everyone would have died.”

The sheer amount of mana required for the ‘mana recharge’ at the lake for 6 hours was enormous.

Even with such extensive charging, all the mana was used up to the point of depleting the Dragon Heart, barely succeeding in the teleport. Being close to an Adult-class but still a Juvenile, it shouldn’t have been this easy. As Blaugrunn said, it was possible because he could link Shoer’s mana and that of the Paleos for the teleport, knowing the exact coordinates of the space.

“It was possible because of you. Phew.”

This time, even Leeha had to acknowledge Blaugrunn’s boasting.

Without the linked mana of the targets and spatial coordinate information, this teleport would have been impossible even for Bailephus. Leeha couldn’t help but smile fondly at Blaugrunn, who continued to speak boldly.

“You were amazing, blaugrun-ssi.”

“It was nothing special, but I’m a bit sleepy…”

Blaugrunn, lying on his back in the water as if doing a backstroke, fell asleep right there.

Leeha, using Jellypong, caught Blaugrunn drifting in the current and shouted to the Sea God.

“Sea God-nim! What do you think now!? This is the mystical creature ‘Shoer’ and his Paleos from the lake on the New Continent! They can usually be in human form, but like now, they can exist in Ghibrid form of human and fish, just like Drake-nim!”

Different from mermaids.

Different from fishmen.

More similar to Drake, who possesses both human lower limbs and a fish tail.


Of course, the scaly appearance and tail fin shape were that of a ‘carp’, so they lacked the sleekness and elegance of Drake, but Leeha’s comparison wasn’t wrong.

“Father.”

“Sea, sea God-nim. You approached them so quickly-”

“Howard. Sea Bream. You still don’t understand.”

Hearing Leeha’s shout, the Sea God slowly moved.

“Guests brought by Leeha. It’s not fitting to be so guarded. Immediately stand down and receive them with honor.”

“Understood. All royal guards—— Attention!”

The Sea God’s massive figure, moving smoothly as if on an escalator, had an overpowering presence.

At his light command, sea Bream and the royal guards instantly lined up.

“To our honored guests who have visited the Dragon Palace—— Salute!”

The royal guards’ salute was full of discipline.

With a shout, countless celebratory bells burst from their extended weapons.

The Sea God approached Shoer amidst the colorful bells.

The Sea God, being the largest among the mermaids, was barely a match in size to the head of Shoer.

The size of the mystical creature was incomparably massive.

“I am Elaim, the Water Spirit King, the oldest among the water spirits. Today, I realize that there is still much to learn. It is a pleasure to meet you, dwellers of the widest world, bearers of the greatest possibilities, blessed by water.”

“Muhong, muhong. I am Shoer, the mystical creature of The Lake Where Light Does Not Enter! Your voice is familiar to my ears. Perhaps when I became a mystical creature. I am sure it was then that I heard it in my mind. Muhong!”

“That’s a pleasant thing to hear. A pleasure to meet you, Shoer-nim.”

The Sea God extended his hand. Grasping the Sea God’s elongated fingers were two of the carp’s enormous whiskers.

As the Sea God and Shoer shook hands – Leeha pondered for a while whether to call it a handshake – a fanfare resounded in Leeha’s mind.


Babam-!

『You have completed the quest ‘New Possibilities for Water Spirits’.』

『Achievement: Discovery of a New Evolutionary Branch of Life and Spirits (S-)』

Congratulations! You have discovered one of the other possible evolutionary paths for not only spirits but all living beings in Middle Earth. This meeting between 『Water Spirit King Elaim』 and 『Mystical Creature Shoer』 will teach both parties various methods of evolution and application of life force! A result that will make all scientists and mages of the continent drool, right?

Reward: Intelligence +11, mind +10, affinity with all spirits, Key to the Realm of Spirits obtained

You are the first to register the achievement 『Discovery of a New Evolutionary Branch of Life and Spirits』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect is applied.

Effect: Intelligence +22, mind +20

『You have obtained the Key to the Realm of Spirits.』

‘An achievement…?! And an item?’

What Leeha thought would simply yield the Essence of the World from the quest resulted in unexpected gains. Leeha watched the whirlpools of bubbles in front of him. Like small whirlpools forming in front of his face, when the currents dissipated, what appeared in Leeha’s vision was a translucent key. However, no other living being seemed to be looking in his direction. Leeha quickly pocketed the key into his bag.

“Howard.”

“Yes, father.”

“Take Leeha to the purification pool. Give him the Essence of the World.”

“Understood.”

“Oh, yes. The Essence. Right, the Essence.”

Leeha hastily followed Drake.

Behind them, the Sea God and Shoer’s hearty laughter echoed, along with simultaneous cheers from the mermaids and Carp Paleos.

“Let’s hold a festival! Even without the energy from the purification tank, we have found another path for our water spirits! For today, open up the storage freely!” Wowww—————!

Leeha wanted to understand what the ‘Affinity with Spirits’ reward meant, but the cheers were too loud to concentrate.

“Thank you.”

“Don’t mention it.”

Mostly, Leeha was responding to Drake’s heartfelt thanks, leaving no room for other thoughts.

The entrance to the purification tank, now more guarded and narrow than before, came into view shortly after.

Shaaaaiii………!

Red light burst forth from the purification tank, pulsating like a heart.

The light slowly converged into one spot. After a moment, what Drake held in his hand was a fist-sized orb.

“This is…”

『You have obtained the Essence of the World.』

“Yes. With this extraction, we won’t be able to welcome new companions for about half a year.”

“I’m, I’m sorry about that.”

“No, it’s okay. As Father said, it might even be a stepping stone for greater progress. Thanks to the ones you brought, Leeha.”

Exchanging awkward goodbyes – not a big deal, no, but thank you – was brief.

Leeha immediately took out his crystal ball.

Eager to go to Bahamut with Blaugrunn wrapped around him like a buoy using Jellypong, a sudden thought struck him.

“Excuse me…”

“Hmm? Is there something else you need?”

“No, not exactly. I was wondering if you knew what the Key to the Realm of Spirits is…”

“The Key to the Realm of Spirits?!”

“Is, is that strange?”

Drake’s eyes widened in surprise. His reaction made Leeha even more puzzled.

“Strange? No, not strange. Why does that name come up now? The Key to the Realm of Spirits…”

Drake looked bewildered.

The iron-hearted captain, the ‘Second Storm’ of the Kraven Kingdom, was rarely seen confused.

“It’s literally that. A key that can open the door to the realm of spirits. This purification pool, didn’t it turn highly pure water spirits into fishmen?”

“Yes, that’s right.”

“So, where would the less pure water spirits be?”

“… What?”

“That’s exactly the realm of spirits.”

“Ah…!”

Leeha felt like he almost understood but was still somewhat confused.

Literally, a world where spirits exist. Not spirits materialized in this reality, but a place where spirits can exist as spirits!

“The Key to the Realm of Spirits. Maybe it’s from our treasure vault? No, father directly gave you Jellypong, so that’s not it. We only have one ourselves. Only Father can freely travel between the Realm of Spirits and our world. If something happens to Father, only ‘one’ mermaid can go to the Realm of Spirits.”

(To be continued…)
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 “Does this mean that other spirits, besides the Spirit Kings, cannot go to the Realm of Spirits?”

“That’s right. They could if they abandoned their bodies…

But that would mean death.

In other words, aside from the Spirit Kings, once born, they can only go to the Realm of Spirits upon death.

Leeha almost laughed at the explanation that there was only one such key in the Dragon Palace’s treasure vault, but he managed to hold it back.

‘What’s this? I hit the jackpot unexpectedly!’

He had no idea what exactly it meant to go to the Realm of Spirits, what he could do there, or how, but its rarity alone was already a ‘jackpot’.

“Understood. Thank you.”

“Hmm. Your accomplishments keep impressing me, somewhat enviously.”

“What?”

“Just look at the state of Jellypong.”

Drake reached out his hand, and Jellypong, which had been in the form of Leeha’s vest, smoothly extended another arm.

『Mon-mon-mon!』

Jellypong’s arm, making a sound like a cheerful laugh, wrapped around Drake’s arm.

Drake smiled like a father looking at his son. He had been able to gauge Jellypong’s ‘strength’ from the start.

As Jellypong’s strength was linked with Leeha’s, by observing Jellypong, drake could estimate Leeha’s condition.

“Feeling bored in the Dragon Palace?”

“Bored? No, not really. But…”

Leeha could sense Drake’s feelings. Indeed, compared to his life in the Kraven Kingdom, it must have been somewhat mundane.

“I hope we can meet again outside of water someday.”


“I look forward to that day too. Ah, but to take Shoer-nim and the Carp paleo friends back-”

“Father will take care of that. Don’t worry. If he utilizes that ‘Realm of Spirits’ you mentioned, it’ll be quick.”

“Hmm, got it. I’ll keep it a secret from Blaugrunn-ssi. Hehe, then Drake-nim, see you next time.”

“Wish you good luck.”

Leeha nodded and activated his crystal ball.

Drake seemed to have a look in his eyes as if asking ‘can I come too?’

‘Drake outside of water… Would he then become part of the Kraven Kingdom again?’

Wouldn’t that make him an 『Enemy』 again, in terms of national relations?

Leeha thought it was better to avoid that.

And at that moment, Leeha, blaugrun, and Jellypong arrived at Bahamut’s lair.

『Myong- Mon-mon?!』

“Oops, we’re not in water now—Blaugrunn-ssi! Wake up!”

“Hmm… I want to sleep more…”

As soon as they arrived at Bahamut’s lair, Jellypong made a startled sound.

“In water, I could carry Blaugrunn around (?), but on land, gravity affects us directly.”

Of course, Jellypong, which effortlessly lifted several mana relay tower materials, wouldn’t find it difficult, but it seemed hard to maintain balance with a living creature wriggling around.

“Hmm…?”

Bahamut looked on disdainfully at the three life forms that suddenly appeared and were flustering around in his lair.

He quickly assessed Blaugrunn’s condition and infused some of his mana into him.

“Lo, lord. I am ashamed. As a Juvenile-class, being this defenseless-”


“Haha, after all, aren’t you still a child? Your heart may be close to Adult-class, but you’re not an Adult yet, so don’t push yourself too hard.”

After a while, a blushing Blaugrunn woke up and bowed deeply. Even though Bahamut said it was fine, blaugrun remained lying down. Bahamut sighed and withdrew his attention from the stubborn Bronze Dragon, turning to Leeha.

“So, you’ve come here because…”

“Of course, I brought it. With permission from the Sea God – no, water Spirit King Elaim, I’ve extracted the Essence of the World.”

As if to say he also heard about his past, Leeha offered the Essence of the World.

Looking at the fist-sized, self-illuminating orb, Bahamut expressed surprise.

“Elaim really gave this to you? The same fellow who threatened me with Sylphid and Gnoas…”

“Phew, it was extraordinary. Really… there’s no other way to put it but luck.”

The quest to bring aquatic creatures wasn’t something to be solved in 3 days, as Blaugrunn had mentioned. Yet Leeha did it. His stubborn actions in the New Continent to find the Paleos and build rapport, not just for achievement but as a culmination of knowledge, information, and connections, had paid off.

“That’s right. But it wasn’t just luck or chance.”

Bahamut was correct. Leeha realized that every step he took eventually helped him in ways he never anticipated.

“We’ve overcome one hurdle now.”

Leeha nearly retorted to Bahamut’s comment, but held back as a hologram window appeared before him.

『You have completed the quest ‘The Light and Shadow of Radical Growth’.』

『You have leveled up.』

『The Light and Shadow of Radical Growth-2』

Description: “How you convinced Elaim, I’ll hear another time. I might want to use it myself. Haha, now we’re 50% done. The remaining part is one, the fruit of the World Tree, to be combined with the Essence of the World. I’ll tell you in advance, there’s no World Tree on this continent. They’ve all been contaminated. It’s something even my mana cannot detect, so you needn’t bother searching around here. However, the Essence of the World becomes murky over time, so you’ll need to obtain it as quickly as possible.”

Growth accelerants are made by combining the Essence of the World with the fruit of the World Tree!

‘World Tree’ doesn’t refer to a single tree. It’s a term for a species of tree that grows by absorbing plenty of the earth’s energy. The ‘water’ of the flow and the ‘earth’ of the stable. The combination of these two energies will make rapid growth possible.

Task: Obtain the item ‘Fruit of the World Tree


within 150 days and deliver it to Bahamut.

Reward: Use item ［Growth Accelerant］ Condition for Failure: Exceeding the time limit

Penalty for Failure: The material item ‘Essence of the World’ will disappear.

Do you accept the quest?

‘Damn… I had a feeling it was a linked quest from the start.’

Leeha knew there would be something difficult, but the actual complexity of the quest was beyond his estimation.

“In the Lope Continent, there definitely aren’t any, right?”

“That’s correct.”

“Hmm, but why didn’t you tell me earlier that the Essence of the World has a time limit?”

“I didn’t expect you to be able to retrieve it.”

To speak so boldly!

What was he supposed to do now that there was suddenly a time limit! Leeha wanted to argue, but he couldn’t say a word.

‘Maybe it’s a relief that the rewards are clearly revealed.’

150 days in Middle Earth time, which is exactly one month in real time.

Within that period, he must search the ‘New Continent’ thoroughly to find the World Tree and its fruit.

Many feasible methods came to Leeha’s mind.

For now, the completion of the quest couldn’t be confirmed. After all, adventure is a gamble without certainty.

“Understood. I’ll find it. The World Tree, that’s… a big tree, right?!”

“Yes, you know, don’t you?”

“Yes. I’ve encountered the Corrupted World Tree, so I’m familiar with it.”

The tree he had discovered once in the unexplored territories of the Old Continent with Jingjingjing.

A nefarious monster (?) that charmed and controlled surrounding monsters with its scent. That was the ‘Corrupted World Tree’.

‘At least I have many hints. I know the appearance and abilities of the World Tree.

If I know what to be cautious of, all I need to do is find it. And if the problem is simply ‘finding’, there are ways to significantly reduce the time needed.

“I’ll be back soon.”

“150 days.”

“I know. Blaugrunn-ssi, stay here! I’ll summon you when I return!”

“I can follow without that. Just because I showed weakness for a moment doesn’t mean you can ignore me-”

“Quiet, and go!”

Leeha immediately activated his crystal ball. Of course, he didn’t forget to use his time efficiently even in that brief moment.

Leeha: Fernand-ssi! How’s your exploration of the New Continent going?!

World Tree?

This man might have already found it.

Whoosh…!

Leeha, blaugrun, and Jellypong disappeared.

Bahamut chuckled at the spot where Leeha had vanished and at the ‘Essence of the World.’

“Now that you’ve obtained the Essence of the World, if you also get the fruit of the World Tree… Elaim might have been coerced, but I worry that Gnoas will just stand by and watch. What should I say if he asks why I didn’t tell him earlier? Hmm〜 This calls for a meeting, perhaps.”

If Leeha had seen Bahamut’s mischievous smile, he probably wouldn’t have accepted the quest.

To speak so assertively!

What was he to do now with a suddenly announced time limit? Leeha wanted to argue but found himself at a loss for words.

‘Maybe it’s a relief that the rewards are clearly revealed.’

After all, the success of the quest was uncertain. Adventure is an uncertain gamble.

“Looking for dealers for Red Wood hunting ground〜 Level requirement 240〜”

“Any parties going to Rhinodillo habitat? I’m a 266 level tank free to join!”

“Let’s hunt Weaving-Spiders! Healers and buffers welcome!”

The surrounding bustle couldn’t distract Leeha. He had sent a message to Fernand, but the response wasn’t very satisfying.

Fernand: Ugh, that annoying monster? I haven’t seen it during my exploration of the New Continent… Ah! I’ve seen a tree similar to the World Tree, though not the World Tree itself.

Leeha: Are you sure it’s not the World Tree?

Fernand: Hmm, I hate to say this, but I’ve probably seen over a hundred contaminated World Trees, which is more than Leeha-ssi has, so I’m certain. It definitely looked different… but its towering stature compared to its surroundings was similar.

‘If Fernand-ssi says it’s not the World Tree, then it really must not be. Indeed, in the unexplored areas of the Rothen Continent, he must have come across more than a hundred contaminated World Trees.’

So, it seems that the World Tree has not been discovered yet in the New Continent. And if Fernand hasn’t seen it, it’s likely no other player has either.

‘Should I trust this ‘similar tree’ he mentioned?’

There might be a difference in appearance between a contaminated and an uncontaminated World Tree. That’s all Leeha had to consider.

If not, he would really have to start searching from scratch.

‘But that’s not going to be easy.’

There was a specific reason Fernand hadn’t confirmed it. It wasn’t just because of the distance.

A large tree similar in appearance to the Corrupted World Tree?

Isn’t that enough to spark the curiosity of an adventurer? But why hadn’t Fernand gone there?

“Ugh, one of the sources of demons! And it’s in a place so remote that no one has cleared it!”

Fernand speculated that the place was one of the sources of demons. To confirm a source of demons for a 『Common Quest』, one must completely clear the monsters from that source, which means the numbers only increase after fully clearing it. So, it’s not yet certain whether it’s a source or not. But considering the number and strength of swarming monsters, fernang was sure it was one of the seven sources.

“To take people there…”

Leeha looked around. This wasn’t a paleo tribe village. A human village hastily formed, overturning Chiyou’s schemes and superimposed by Rotzak’s plans. Located near a mana relay tower, it had a fairly large area, but it was too small for the officials of various countries to bother with, according to Rotzak’s plan.

Although it was only about a quarter the size of the Gaza City, high-ranking officials from Fibiel, minis, Kraven, and Shazrashian were all dispatched.

‘It’s a small but highly ‘investable’ land. The first human village in the New Continent. Moreover, it’s centered around the warp gate…’

(To be continued…)
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 To control this place would mean gaining a foothold in conquering the New Continent. It’s a hub for not only NPCs but also players carrying secret orders from various kingdoms.

“That’s why it’s somewhat awkward to form parties here.”

It’s hard to trust anyone. Especially since Fernand pinpointed an exact location. If he reaches there, he’s certain to gain a discovery achievement. Knowing the value of information on the New Continent, it’s natural to hesitate to travel with anyone other than truly trusted players. Leeha suddenly realized his own thoughts and was surprised. Even someone like him, who generally trusts people easily, was thinking this way.

‘Other players must also be highly cautious and investigative, especially in the New Continent, where only advanced players venture.’

Leeha could easily predict the strife that would soon arise from this land. But finding someone trustworthy to call or look for? That wasn’t easy either.

‘Ah, the time pressure! It’s not the 150 days that’s the issue… I have to fly to Hong Kong tomorrow!’

There was less than 24 hours left in reality!

Probably, after a day or three in Middle Earth time, he would really be facing the situation of imminent departure. Waiting for other players to clear the demon sources was too time-consuming. He had to move alone.

“What you’re muttering about is unclear, but if it’s thinking you need, you don’t have to do it alone, Leeha-ssi.”

“Eh? Haha! That’s right. I’m not alone.”

“Huh?”

No, to be precise, he wasn’t alone. Leeha smiled at Blaugrunn, who looked up at him with a blank expression. Party play? He already had a reliable ally.

Leeha pulled out a magazine.

“In that case, there’s no choice. Whether it’s a demon source or not…”

Click-!

“Let’s try facing it just the two of us.”

His dramatic insertion drew momentary attention from those around him, but that was all. Blaugrunn used a mass teleportation as soon as Leeha gave the coordinates.

Soon, all traces of their presence were gone.

『Key to the Realm of Spirits (One-time use, then expires)』

 Effect: Allows one entry into a spirit realm. Description: A remnant from a divine being. The spirit kings born in his abode had a profound influence on all life in Middle Earth. However, the deity always rejected unilateral influence. To allow the creatures of Middle Earth to also affect spirits, this key was crafted.


『Doors appear. Fire, water, wind, earth, luck- and more than ten others. Each one leads to a spirit realm. Can I only choose one? I decide to try, leaving this book behind in case I don’t return.』

An item revealed through the records of the greatest Wood Elf spirit mage, alren Srna, who researched all things spirit and was the first to contract with all nineteen spirit kings.

“Hmm… Blaugrunn-ssi, do you know anything about the Key to the Realm of Spirits?”

“I am not a spirit.”

An unexpected reply from Blaugrunn, who usually chattered away even without being asked. But when he really needed information, blaugrun claimed ignorance.

“Then, let me rephrase the question. Do you know how many types of spirits there are? Or anything about the spirit mage Alren Srna?”

“That’s the same question.”

“Huh?”

“Alren Srna, a Wood Elf who once piqued the interest of dragons. He contracted with nineteen spirit kings and then declared there were no more natural spirits. That

was during my time as a hatchling… well, not the recent hatchling phase.”

If Blaugrunn was a hatchling at that time, it meant Alren Srna, the Wood Elf, must have been an individual from at least 1,000 years ago.

‘Definitely an NPC then. After all, a spirit mage who contracted with all spirit kings would undoubtedly be a top ranker.’

Leeha briefly wondered if Srna might be a player but quickly nodded in agreement with his own thoughts.

“But you’re saying there are nineteen spirit kings?”

“According to Alren Srna’s claim. That’s something even we dragons can’t accurately determine. Magic and spirits are entirely different realms, and… Bahamut-nim doesn’t exactly have the best relationship with spirits.”

“Hmm, that makes sense.”

Leeha pondered the complexity of the spirit realm and the vast number of spirits that might exist within it. It opened a whole new dimension of possibilities in Middle Earth, a world already rich with lore and magic.

“Then there are nineteen spirit types, huh?”

Leeha mused.

“If Alren Srna’s claim is true, it means there’s a vast, unexplored aspect of Middle Earth waiting to be discovered.”


Despite the uncertainty and the new challenges ahead, Leeha felt a spark of excitement at the prospect of delving into this unknown territory. With the Key to the Realm of Spirits in hand, he had the potential to unlock new mysteries and perhaps encounter entities beyond his current understanding.

Bahamut’s relationship with spirits could be inferred from the reaction of the Sea God Elraim, so Leeha nodded in understanding.

‘Spirits.’

Despite possessing items related to spirits, Leeha realized he knew little about them. But this was to be expected, as information on the internet was limited.

The most famous were the seven spirits, representing the four classical elements – fire, water, wind, and earth – plus electricity. There were also rumors of ‘light and darkness’ spirits, though these were not confirmed.

‘Seven spirits, with two still largely unknown.’

But were there truly 12 more unconfirmed spirits? Leeha pocketed the translucent key, tempted to use it immediately.

Just knowing the remaining types of spirits would be invaluable. Even selling this information could be lucrative.

‘But the time…’

The pressing time constraint was an issue. Using the key meant choosing one door among many, a choice that could not be undone.

“Stop!”

“Whoa!”

Blaugrunn abruptly yanked on Leeha’s clothes, halting him. As a dragon beyond the hatchling stage, blaugrun possessed considerable strength.

“Any further is dangerous. This is where it starts… the mana source.”

Pointing with his small finger, blaugrun indicated something visible even from a distance – a structure towering high into the sky, unmistakably similar to the ‘corrupted World Trees’ Leeha had encountered before.

“Indeed… But there seem to be fewer monsters than expected-”

“There are many. You might not see them yet, Leeha-ssi.”

Leeha asked, confused, as he saw no monsters in sight.

“This source was identified by Fernand, right? Impressive for a human.”

“What do you mean?”


“Are you going to enter?”

“Hmm, I want to assess the situation first. According to Fernand, normally one demon source requires three raid teams for a successful operation. Five if the teams aren’t well-coordinated.”

A party typically consists of five members, and a raid team is made up of five parties. Normally, a demon source is tackled by 25 players. The two demon sources cleared so far followed this pattern.

This meant a minimum requirement of 75 players and a recommended number of around 125, all of whom should be elite players capable of handling the New Continent.

This wasn’t just a standard raid or dungeon from the Old Continent; it was a serious challenge requiring top-grade players.

『Detect Evil』.”

While Leeha was explaining, blaugrun cast a spell without much attention to his words.

Whooooosh!

Until a moment ago, the area resembled a wasteland overrun with weeds, barren except for a lone tree in the distance, and devoid of any animals.

But now?

“Grrrrr…”

“Creeeek- Creeeek”

“We’ve got- humans here-”

Countless monsters appeared, too many to count. Not just in number, but their types were diverse as if a dungeon’s worth of monsters were squeezed into a small space.

“…Blaugrunn-ssi? You heard me, right?”

“One by one, they are around level 260 to 280 in human terms. Let’s go.”

“What? Where? Wait a minute!”

“Just follow me. I’ll protect you. I know that’s what you’d want, Leeha-ssi.”

Before Leeha could react, blaugrun began to transform, emitting a teal light.

Leeha knew immediately what it was – Dragon Form. He hadn’t seen Blaugrunn in this form since he reached the Juvenile stage.

“Big- no, small?!”

Relative to his memories of an adult Blaugrunn, this form was significantly smaller, though still larger than Leeha.

A fearsome sight to enemies, yet lacking the overwhelming terror of an Ancient Dragon like Bailephus, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, or Bahamut.

Leeha felt a mix of joy and slight disappointment. Riding on Blaugrunn now seemed plausible.

Kyaaaaaaaah———!

‘- And he’d probably bite my head off for suggesting it.’

Blaugrunn roared, a sound filled with the assertion of his existence. This Bronze Dragon, reborn through a mythical item after a death in his Adult stage, now proudly displayed his true dragon form, despite being a Juvenile.

The roar was a testament to his achievement, and Leeha looked on with admiration. It was a different kind of pride from when he had fed Blaugrunn the growth accelerator.

“Karararara——!”

“Caw- Caw——Ka!”

“Blaugrunn-ssi! Flying monsters!”

But were the monsters of the New Continent similarly moved? Unlike those of the Old Continent, none of them halted at the roar of a Juvenile Dragon, which normally would have a substantial status effect.

The creatures – from four-winged crows to giant birds that were mere skeletons, even boss-level raptor monsters from Candle Castle – numbered well over fifty.

As Leeha shouted, blaugrun twisted his long neck to look at him.

『Don’t worry, just take care of yourself.』

The dragon was smiling. In an instant, teal granules gathered before his face. Before Leeha could react, scales on Blaugrunn’s chin flashed.

Electricity surged, channeled through the mana emanating from his Dragon Heart.

“Ugh!”

Leeha covered his ears.

He had to close his eyes against the blinding light but managed to catch a glimpse of the breath attack.

(To be continued…)
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 The lightning breath, not a straight line but a radiating force, tore through the air. Leeha knew the only weakness of a dragon’s breath: avoid the initial direction of the blast. Dragons, of course, knew this too, but usually, spreading the breath’s energy weakens its force.

But now?

Centered around Blaugrunn, the breath formed a semi-circle, incinerating every approaching avian monster with sufficient power.

Leeha, attempting to peek, had to close his eyes again as his body emitted a bright light.

『You have leveled up.』

“…You have leveled up… with just one breath?”

Leeha was torn between joy and the urge to curse Alexander. How could he not top the rankings if a Juvenile Dragon could do this, let alone an Ancient Dragon!

“That… Blaugrunn-ssi? You’re Juvenile-class, right? I thought the monsters were between levels 260 to 280-”

『Hmm, seems I misjudged my strength. I could have used less power and still defeated them.』

Leeha was too stunned by the unbelievable scene to discern whether Blaugrunn was boasting or speaking the truth. Blaugrunn’s face, though draconic, showed a smug satisfaction that Leeha recognized. He nodded, finally regaining his focus.

“We can’t fall behind! Jellypong, switch to combat mode: Agility! And-”

『Mongmongmong-!』

As Jellypong sprang from Leeha’s body, glowing red, Leeha activated another skill.

“–『Soul Link』!”

With a roar, the fire bear ‘Koma’ appeared, flames engulfing its body.

Gone were the days of wandering alone; each member of the ‘Leeha Squad’ possessed top-grade combat abilities.

Leeha pulled the trigger, laughing heartily.

“Kahaha, let’s sweep them all! 『Multi-shot』!”

As his highest offensive skills were unleashed, blaugrun in dragon form, fire bear Koma, and Jellypong, created by the Water Spirit King Elaim, began their rampage.

『You have leveled up.』


『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

『Common Quest: When You Cut the Grass, snakes Will Appear

Details: Verify the Source of Demons (3/7)』

It was about 7 hours later when the quest count increased by one.

The most surprised among the users was certainly Fernand.

‘Could it be Leeha-ssi? No, no way. Byulcho is on the Old Continent, and there’s no one to gather the quest. Who among the others cleared a spot…? Maybe it really was Leeha-ssi…? No, it couldn’t be. Even Alexander couldn’t do it alone… No, it can’t be.’

Despite his rational doubts, a lingering unease remained unquenched.

Fernand’s enormous trust in Leeha paradoxically made him anxious.

“Phew… I can’t even remember how many magazines I’ve changed. Jellypong, you must be tired too. Thanks for your hard work.”

『Myongmyong… Mongmongmong…』

Exhausted, Leeha collapsed to the ground, gasping for air. Jellypong, too, with droopy eyes, slithered towards Leeha.

Even in its agile ‘combat mode’, which highly synergized with Leeha’s stats, Jellypong was evidently fatigued.

“This is really… not something to repeat. Koma only fought for 30 minutes before disappearing.”

If Koma heard that, he’d probably growl and smack Leeha’s back, protesting that he had no choice due to the 30-minute limit of Soul Link. But Leeha knew better. It was simply an outcome of over six hours of intense battle.

『Already tired? I feel like I’ve just stretched my body after a long time. Why don’t we take on another location?』

“Heh, no showing off, please. Blaugrunn-ssi, I saw you huffing and puffing after three hours.”

『Humph, who’s showing off?』

Despite his words, blaugrun-ssi settled next to Leeha. They had decimated nearly 70% in the first three hours, but the remaining 30% took another four strenuous hours.

‘Maybe it was easier than expected, considering it would normally require three to five raid teams.’


The might of the ‘Leeha Squad’ was evident, offering an unexpected gain along with a rapid level up. But Leeha’s actual objective remained unachieved.

“The giant tree wasn’t the World Tree… not even close.”

Fernand’s supposed World Tree look-alike was far from it. Instead, this colossal tree was the very symbol allowing this place to be a source of demons.

『Bluebeard’s mana traces are there. Though I don’t understand the meaning of the six circles he marked on the tree.』

The marks, undoubtedly made by Bluebeard’s staff, were clear to Leeha too. However, the significance of the six circles, unknown even to Blaugrunn-ssi, was frustrating.

The achievement obtained after annihilating all the monsters didn’t shed light on these marks either.

『Achievement: The Fifth Land Tainted with Demonic Essence (A+)』

Congratulations! You have successfully purified the fifth land tainted with demonic essence! However, Bluebeard is nowhere to be found. He protected this land, undoubtedly visited by him. There’s only one reason he traveled to various places! Chase him before it’s too late. Purify the lands still tainted with demonic essence and confront Bluebeard.

Reward: Strength +10, agility +10, intelligence +10, erika Continent Common Fame +30

(No Hall of Fame for this achievement. Awarded to the entire raid team.)

‘Three out of seven demonic sources have been cleared by players.’

The quest count was 3/7, but the achievement clearly stated ‘the fifth source.’ It wasn’t a typo. Leeha knew it referred to the story-based numbering of the seven sources.

‘Even if this was the ‘Fifth Demonic Source’, what about those six circles? If only I knew the markings at other sources.’

But who cleared them remained a mystery. After a grueling battle to reach the supposed World Tree, finding it unrelated was utterly disappointing.

“Where on earth do I find the World Tree? It must be somewhere in the New Continent!”

『Don’t be too hasty.』

“Gosh, I wouldn’t be this anxious under normal circumstances.”

『Normal circumstances? What’s different now?』

Blaugrunn-ssi tilted his massive dragon head, curious. Leeha hesitated before speaking.

“I’ll be away from the world of Middle Earth for a while.”


『Away? Why?』

“Well… I have somewhere to be. Just that.”

How could he explain logging out to go to Hong Kong to an NPC?

Leeha shrugged it off vaguely and waved his hand.

Since his hatching days, blaugrun had witnessed Leeha’s countless logouts and didn’t press further this time.

『Quest: The Shadow of Radical Growth – Phase II』

Objective: Within 150 Middle Earth days, acquire the ‘Fruit of the World Tree’ and deliver it to Bahamut.

“Well, there’s no need to rush. I haven’t even spent a day in Middle Earth’s time yet. As for Hong Kong, I don’t plan to stay there more than three or four days.”

Even when factoring in the travel time, it would only consume about five real-world days at most. In Middle Earth, that equated to about 25 days, a manageable period considering the 150-day deadline.

From the start, the 150-day limit implied the difficulty and arduous nature of finding the World Tree. Thus, Leeha decided not to rush and instead gather information and move methodically.

“After all, this wasn’t all for nothing.”

『Of course. Just seeing Jellypong and that bear in action was—』

“No, not that. I mean, as a result.”

『Result?』

“Hehe, character window!”

Leeha smiled at Blaugrunn and opened his character window. Was the battle’s gain solely about checking combat power? Of course not!

Name: Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 209 (68%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 130

HP: 6,550(4,585)

MP: 1,945

Stats: Strength 561(+466)

Agility 3,471(+1,244) Intelligence 233(+182)

Stamina 228(+135) Spirit 95(+85)

Remaining Stat Points: 45

“Just recently I was at 200, and now I’ve almost reached 210.”

『Indeed, your level has visibly increased.』

“Do you notice that too?”

『Obviously. It’s all thanks to me.』

Blaugrunn snorted arrogantly, but Leeha didn’t have the energy to retort and simply allocated all his stat points to agility.

“Ah, I should stop by Gaza City before leaving. Shall we go back?”

At Leeha’s question, blaugrun reverted to his human form. The flickering turquoise glow was as good as a nod. Leeha saved their current location in the modification sphere and teleported to Gaza City.

While handling administrative work for the city, Leeha briefly opened his friends’ window. Kijung had already logged out, and so had Shin Nara and Bobae.

“It must be nighttime in reality. They’ve probably gone to sleep.”

Then he checked Kidd’s location.

New Continent Erika – The Barren Twilight Plains.

Leeha couldn’t tell where it was but guessed it must be near a hunting ground.

‘Going to see the Arcane Sniper, and he’s in the same place called the Barren Twilight Plains?’ It was a peculiar place name, different from Leeha’s expectations.

More importantly, the plains? Why would an NPC or monster like the Arcane Sniper be in such a place? Could it be resting there?

‘He’s not moving yet. Maybe he’s leveling up first before proceeding…’

Leeha deeply pondered. Being a well-prepared player, Kidd’s approach would surely differ from Luger’s. Knowing Luger’s last location and heading to find the Arcane Sniper, he wouldn’t move immediately. Until Leeha prepared to logout for Hong Kong, he could only speculate so much. Kidd’s location changed right after Leeha logged out.

(To be continued…)
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 “Sigh… Persistent, that’s an understatement. Who plays a game without even sleeping?”

Kidd shook his head as he viewed his friend list. He had planned to leave immediately if Leeha logged out even once, but Leeha’s relentless gameplay hadn’t given Kidd that opportunity. Finally, Leeha logged out. Of course, it was not for sleep, but due to his trip to Hong Kong. For Kidd, this was an unpredictably rare opportunity.

“But thanks to that, my preparations are perfect.”

Kidd dusted off his coat, shaking off the accumulated grime. Having carefully selected his position and hidden his presence for several days, he had run numerous simulations in his mind.

Of course, these were contemplations on how to approach the ‘Arcane Sniper’. Unlike Leeha or Luger, Kidd couldn’t rely on long-range shooting. He was well aware that his approach had to be different, and he had found his solution.

“You may not use it, but I have a way.”

Kidd drew his twin revolvers, spinning them expertly on his fingers. The Crimson Geckos gleamed as before, but his appearance had changed since a few days ago – new hat, clothes, and shoes.

Walking through the New Continent Erika – Barren Twilight Plains for about thirty minutes, he reached a point where the ground turned the color of burnt charcoal – the entrance to the ‘Blooming Wasteland’.

“Growl…”

“Hiss…”

“Indeed, the monsters’ forms are immediately telling. But that’s exactly the signal.”

Wolves, reminiscent of hyenas but clearly lupine, began to emerge. They cautiously circled and pressed in – a typical wolf pack strategy. But Kidd wasn’t flustered.

“Now into the unknown. The place where Luger died. If this is where the ‘Arcane Sniper’ appears, it won’t be long.”

The first measure was to assess the Arcane Sniper’s skills. Kidd estimated its sniping range to be about three times that of Leeha’s.

He had to abandon the mindset of ‘spotting’ the enemy. From the moment those wolves appeared, he believed he could be in the Arcane Sniper’s crosshairs at any time.

“Phew… Phew…”

Kidd tensed every nerve in his body, his muscles ready for the ‘Speed’ state.

He assumed the Arcane Sniper was already observing him.

“Feel it. When will it strike, and from where?”

Although the surrounding wolves were closing in, Kidd’s focus was elsewhere. He surveyed the terrain and his most exposed positions.


There’s no hiding. He can’t sneak up on the Arcane Sniper. If he can’t approach the Arcane Sniper, he must make the Arcane Sniper approach him.

“Just like now!”

“Kyaaak!”

Kidd’s leap and the charge of the three-headed wolves occurred almost simultaneously. He was aware of every being around him, though not looking directly at them.

With a long jump and a forward roll, he fired five shots, shattering each of the three heads of the wolves, with two bullets to spare.

“Kyaang!”

The remaining two bullets easily penetrated the thighs of another three-headed wolf.

After killing one and disabling another, Kidd rose from his roll and continued firing!

Tadaaa——!

The six or more three-headed wolves surrounding Kidd couldn’t get within 2 meters of him. As a ‘Rapid Fire’ specialist, he decimated the monsters in an instant.

Reloading four revolvers took him just about 1.3 seconds. It was impossible to do this fast with just a speed-loader; it required repeated practice, akin to breathing, and a significant agility stat.

“Surely you’re watching, arcane Sniper. And if you’ve seen me, then-”

Kidd pressed down his hat brim, covering his face. In an environment devoid of monsters, he leaned forward as if to walk. But just before taking a step, he suddenly rolled to the side. It wasn’t just a chilling sensation that prompted this move.

Thud-!

A dull sound kicked up dust where Kidd was about to step, confirming his suspicion.

“That’s what I expected at this moment.”

Then, he quickly changed his movements – forward, backward, sideways! To an onlooker, it might look like a dance, but the unpredictability and speed were incomparable.

If this truly was the Arcane Sniper’s territory, and with no more monsters to hinder him, it was now time for the Arcane Sniper to act. Kidd’s prediction, based on sharp instincts akin to Luger’s and logical reasoning like Leeha’s, was spot-on.

After dodging five shots from the Arcane Sniper using his senses and intellect, the shooting stopped. Kidd pressed down his hat even more, almost completely obscuring his vision.

“… Is the test finally over?”


Even in this situation, Kidd was smiling.

Then, he stood still, confident that no more shots would come his way. Unlike Luger, who advertised himself as the successor of ‘Piercing’, Kidd had used a different method to convince the Arcane Sniper not to shoot at him anymore. The method was simple, just as he had said at the beginning. Kidd peeked under his hat brim, then quickly pulled it down again to hide his face.

“Hmm!”

Finally, a silhouette emerged in the distance. Kidd, sensing this, spun his revolvers and holstered them.

“Having tested who I am through shooting, and now thinking that I’ve passed your ‘test’, you won’t shoot me. You need to confirm why I’ve come here.”

Step by step, he moved forward.

Kidd walked toward him, then suddenly revised his thoughts.

“No, it’s not that ‘I’ cannot be shot. It’s because I’m mistaken for ‘that person’ that I can’t be shot.”

This was a method neither Leeha nor Luger could use, but it was possible for Kidd. And it was precisely this method he had prepared for, waiting for Leeha’s logout.

Kidd quickly raised and lowered his hat brim again, assessing the distance between him and Arcane Sniper. He stopped at a distance of less than 100 meters.

Kidd also stopped.

His heart pounded nervously. Could Arcane Sniper discern his heartbeat, the throbbing in his chest? Such thoughts crossed his mind.

But the next moment he heard the voice, Kidd slowly exhaled.

“… Browless? How did you get here…”

He had confirmed that his method worked. Before setting foot here, Kidd’s appearance had been perfectly transformed into Browless, a member of the old trio, ‘Rapid Fire’.

***

‘A NPC who knows Captain Browless, and a man at that…’

The voice of Arcane Sniper wasn’t particularly special. It had the typical tone one would expect from a middle-aged man. Kidd thought even Browless’ deeper voice would have suited Arcane Sniper better.

So, Kidd remained silent. He could disguise his appearance, but imitating the voice was impossible.

‘Arcane Sniper must be Mr. Brown.’


Fooling Mr. Brown, who had been Browless’ comrade, was out of the question. Kidd just tensed his muscles, moving step by step.

His hat brim was still pulled down, so Mr. Brown couldn’t see his face. But Kidd couldn’t see Mr. Brown’s state either.

‘I’ll make you feel it.’

Through sound, smell, and the flow of the air. At least Kidd didn’t feel any movement from him.

He was standing still, waiting for Kidd – or rather, ‘Browless’ – to say something.

For Kidd, it was like walking a tightrope.

How far could he go before Mr. Brown recognized him? What was the optimal distance to subdue Arcane Sniper in the current situation?

‘If it’s Mr. Brown, the predecessor of ‘Piercing’, think of him as an upgraded version of Luger. Naturally, I’m stronger in extreme close combat.’

Simple proximity wasn’t enough.

Even 70 meters could be considered close range for snipers, but not for Luger or Kidd. Especially for revolver-wielding Kidd, the advantageous ultra-close range would be within 10 meters.

He needed to enter a radius where he could move faster than Mr. Brown’s weapon rotation.

“One day I knew you’d come. When Luger appeared here, I thought that day wouldn’t be far off. But this soon?”

As Brown’s voice sounded again, Kidd flinched. The slight joy and regret in his voice were palpable to Kidd.

‘But… why does this voice sound so empty…’

What might Brown be feeling?

The distance had already shrunk to within 50 meters.

He must subdue him. Even if it meant injuring Mr. Brown slightly, if he could subdue him quickly, it would be possible.

‘If he uses ‘Arcane Bullet’, I’ll die in one hit. But if I subdue him quickly and take his gun, he won’t be able to use Arcane Bullet.’

He had to seize the moment. Kidd would have an advantage for about 2 to 3 seconds. Knowing that Arcane Sniper wouldn’t use Arcane Bullet carelessly due to its shot limitation was also an advantage. Then it was possible. If given just one chance.

“I understand your disappointment. Naturally, you’d think that way. Even if our positions were reversed, I’d surely blame you. But won’t you listen to me once? About me and… Liza-”

Kidd paused momentarily. Now, the distance was about 22 meters. The atmosphere had shifted; it was difficult to approach more subtly. The moment he felt it was challenging to get closer, Kidd prepared to leap forward. And what move should follow? One chance! And a one-shot subdual!

“Liza… Miss Elizabeth?”

Unlike his usual self, Kidd relaxed his body entirely. He needed to relax his muscles as much as possible, showing no hostility. The opponent was Arcane Sniper. At a distance of 22 meters, an ordinary person wouldn’t see or feel, but he could notice the tension in Kidd’s arm muscles preparing to draw a gun. So as slowly as possible, as if nothing was happening, shamelessly…

‘Now!’

(To be continued…)
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 The expression “lightning-fast movement” felt almost comical in its accuracy. The motion of his nerve cells, extending from his shoulder to his forearm and hand, enabled him to instantly grasp two revolvers. As soon as he drew the revolvers, there was no longer any need to hide his identity. Kidd charged towards Brown. With a sudden acceleration, his hat was swept away by the wind. And then, Kidd could finally see him.

“-Would you pass the message to Browless’ disciple?”

The muzzle was already pointed at him. Kidd instinctively twisted his body. By the time he heard the gunshot, his right shoulder was already burning.

“Kugh-!”

“Quite an interesting prank. Better than that large idiot who claimed to be my successor. But if you were really under Browless, shouldn’t you have paid closer attention? It’s impossible for Browless not to react to ‘Liza’s’ name.”

“Don’t joke with me!”

Kidd raised his arms to shoot his revolvers. Unfortunately, his right arm was completely immobile.

Ta-ta-tang——!

Nevertheless, Kidd wasn’t easily discouraged. Even with just his left hand, he was capable of shooting faster than an average person!

“Hmm?! Indeed, you seem to be a product of Browless’ training.”

Brown, too, had to move, maintaining precise aim at Kidd during his dynamic evasion, but he did not pull the trigger. Kidd saw this as well. The muzzle of the gun, similar to the 〈Cobalt Blue Python〉 but in a completely different color, seemed fixed on him, impossible to evade no matter how much he moved. This meant that from about 30 meters away, Brown had already realized he was not Browless and could have blown Kidd’s head off instantly. But he didn’t, which meant? Kidd reached that conclusion.

‘Is he testing me – or does he have a message to deliver?’

Brown had a different purpose. Whether it was testing or delivering, he clearly had a specific intention for Kidd. And that was Kidd’s last opportunity. Brown, at least, wasn’t attacking with murderous intent. This had to be exploited.

『The Magnificent Seven』

Shaaahhhhh…!

Six flickering silhouettes appeared beside Kidd.

These six illusionary duplicates, reproducing Kidd’s abilities, would have their powers halved due to his damaged right arm, but it was still enough.

‘Even with just the left hand, the attack power is six times greater, and the speed and number of bullets are much more than simply six times greater!’

However, before the first shot could be fired, two of the illusions had already vanished.

Wooaaaahhhhhhh——-!


“Cough, what is this-”

As the illusions disappeared with an explosion, and amidst rising dust and gun smoke, Brown performed a horizontal movement. This seemed like a combat technique, creating smoke for cover and then executing evasive maneuvers.

Kidd and the other four illusions indiscriminately fired bullets toward the obscured figure, but it seemed largely ineffective.

-Ha-ha! Even your annoying personality is just like Browless! Yes, based on your technique, you seem to be the successor of 『Rapid Fire』!

Shooting blindly like this, typical of a revolver, achieved nothing. Brown’s slightly elevated voice could be heard from beyond the smoke. Was it excitement or amusement? Kidd felt mocked just by the sound of his voice.

-But 『Rapid Fire』 isn’t done like that! You haven’t learned that yet, it seems. Hmm, Browless was never really good at teaching his disciples anyway-

“Don’t talk nonsense! Rapid Fire is done with the feet, You’re telling me such nonsense now!”

Pa-pa-pat-!

Before the skill ended, Kidd made the first move.

Still, in the midst of unsettled dust and gun smoke, he was determined to find his target, aware of the consequences that his resolve would bring.

‘A simple provocation to lure me in, then using the sound of my footsteps to locate me – gasp!’

Whoosh——!

A projectile narrowly missed Kidd, flying past him. Kidd laughed.

“-Such a childish tactic to make a move!”

Boom-!

However, when he emerged from the smoke, there was nothing there.

“You’re quite fast, but still a long way off.”

Brown’s voice echoed from somewhere, but Kidd couldn’t pinpoint its origin.

“I don’t want to listen to advice from someone hiding and making such remarks.”

Where are you, show yourself! Kidd quickly reloaded his revolvers. As he was putting the speed-loader back into his bag, a chilling sensation ran down his spine. The leap was instantaneous.


Boom——!

An explosion occurred right where Kidd had been standing just moments ago. Was this timing, right after reloading, deliberately chosen for its vulnerability?

“You’re not too bad at catching on. But I don’t have more time to play. Tell Browless that ‘Liza’ is doing fine. And about Liza and me… no, I’ll save that for next time. Just convey this much, he’ll understand and come looking. Farewell.”

“What-”

Before Kidd could ask anything, the bombardment began.

Boom—–.

Boom——.

Left—–!

Each shot held more destructive power than a simple bullet. If Kidd hid behind a rock, it shattered; if behind a tree, it was set ablaze; where Kidd was expected to run, explosions occurred. Anyone less experienced with guns would have been dead by now. But Kidd was different. Even the fastest 『Rapid Fire』 had a rhythm, a beat. If he could catch that rhythm, he could dodge!

This was not just about imitating Browless to face the Marksman of Myth; Kidd truly believed in his own skill.

“You’re splendid! Browless, you’ve got a good disciple! Did my supposed successor have such skills?”

Amidst the explosions, Brown’s voice suggested he was impressed. But there was no room for Kidd to respond, as his perfect movements were merely a tightrope walk of survival. A tightrope walk he couldn’t cross until the end. That’s why Kidd was so flustered when he couldn’t predict the angle of the shots.

“Can’t predict the angle of fire… He must be moving incredibly fast while shooting!”

Kidd was in disbelief. And there was no time to gather thoughts. After dodging Mr. Brown’s attacks more than ten times, suddenly a hologram window appeared in front of him.

『You have learned the passive skill ‘Danger Perception’.』

The hologram flickered for barely 0.2 seconds, but it was enough to break his rhythm.

“Damn-”

***

“Don’t overdo it! Don’t wander into dangerous places! Got it?”

“Oh, come on, hong Kong is not that… If someone heard you, they’d think I’m going to Somalia or something.”


“Still! You’re already not well, you need to be careful!”

“Alright, I got it. I’m over thirty; I can take care of myself. Go inside.”

Even at the center of Incheon Airport, being fussed over by his mother made Leeha uneasy, almost embarrassed.

Beside Leeha, Kijung laughed quietly.

“Kijung, please take good care of Leeha.”

“Don’t worry, aunt. Leeha hyung won’t stay there long.”

“Uh? What do you mean?”

Hesitating whether to say, ‘He needs to come back quickly to play games’, Kijung pondered while Leeha had already turned his wheelchair.

“Kijung! Let’s go! Mom, go home safely! I’ll text you when I arrive!”

“Yeah! Make sure to eat well!”

Leeha quickly bid farewell to his mother and pushed his wheelchair forward. Kijung followed, pushing the cart carrying Leeha’s luggage.

“What were you about to say?”

“What do you mean? Considering you talked about Middle Earth all the way to the airport, it seems you won’t be in Hong Kong long because of Middle Earth.”

“Ugh…”

Leeha couldn’t argue because Kijung was right.

The two had talked non-stop about Middle Earth, especially recent events, on their way to the airport.

“The dragon has now reached the level of Bailephus-”

“Ba-Bailephus? When did I say that? It’s just that now we can have a proper conversation and it can use some magic.”

“That’s Bailephus-level, alright. From what I see, it’s the same. A dragon, Jellypong? That thing, and a bear. What kind of Musketeer has three pets like that? And you led all of them to sweep through a Demon’s Origin site. That’s totally unfair, you know?”

Kijung sighed, but his voice was laced with envy. It was a style of play beyond the comprehension of ordinary users.

“Unfair, what do you mean?”

“I couldn’t move around much recently because of Chiyou! When the other guild members who didn’t join the Chiyou hunt participated in the first expedition to the Demon’s Origin site with the Rush Guild.”

Kijung’s feelings were understandable.

Indeed, not just Kijung, but anyone would be envious, especially those who had experienced the Demon’s Origin site quest.

“So?”

“About a hundred people participated, and nearly half died within three hours, then another hundred were added… In total, nearly 150 people were needed to finally break through. By the way, one of our guild members who joined the second reinforcement is level 211.”

Leeha’s achievement was something unimaginable.

Leeha just nodded proudly, receiving Kijung’s envy, jealousy(?), and teasing.

“Oh, so what about Chiyou?”

“Still ongoing. Probably tonight… I think. Tonight or early tomorrow morning is when the restriction on Chiyou’s reconnection should be lifted.”

“Hmm.”

“Tale hyung agreed to lead in my place, so don’t worry too much.”

Can another death be orchestrated for Chiyou? Will Byulcho manage well without Kijung?

‘Tale hyung can lead well, but… the most important person in the infinite Chiyou annihilation operation is someone else.

The user who can blow her head off with one shot even outside the village, the ‘Bow Ghost’ Bobae.

While other Byulcho users could also inflict damage on Chiyou, if it’s about the most certain and safe long-distance assassination, Bobae’s power was necessary.

If they could just synchronize well with her,

Tale-Bobae and Hyein’s trio would surely do their part well.

‘Well, it’s not my concern. Kijung must have taken care of it.’

Leeha started the procedures, chatting with Kijung about various topics.

(To be continued…)
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 The procedures for the private jet were entirely different from those of a regular airline. Thanks to the help of Ram Long Group personnel already waiting at the airport, Leeha was able to finish everything from check-in to security faster than the average airline passenger.

“Please wait here for a moment, and then board with us.”

“Do you know why Ram Hwayeon-nim has called us?”

“We don’t know the exact purpose of our director.”

A burly man with dark sunglasses spoke firmly.

Those who were not even allowed to utter the name ‘Ram Hwayeon’ were truly the loyal servants of Ram Long. Leeha just nodded, understanding. It took roughly 30 minutes for the plane to pick up Leeha and Kijung-ssi, following the control tower’s command. ***

When the aircraft, adorned with the massive logo of the Ram Long Group, started to run down the runway of Incheon Airport, two passengers who had just gotten off the airport limousine bus were hurriedly dragging their luggage.

“That’s why I said! We should have come early and taken the airport railroad! It’s the best way to avoid traffic jams!”

“I, I didn’t expect it to be like this! I had so much to pack, what could I do?”

“And you said we’d go shopping, why did you pack so much luggage?”

“Are you going to buy everything from underwear to socks? You have to pack those things—”

“I’m going to buy everything from underwear to socks, all of it!”

Back and forth, they grumbled while dragging their luggage, but their balance never wavered. Passersby glanced at the two striking figures with their sleek builds, but they couldn’t recognize them. The two women wearing sunglasses hurried towards the check-in counter. In their passports were tickets to Hong Kong.

***

“Hong Kong!”

“It’s warm! Or, is it hot?!”

“Hmm, it smells different too, doesn’t it?”

The ‘difference’ they felt as soon as they got off the plane. Korea was still at the tail end of winter, but Hong Kong was already warm enough for light clothing.

“It’s all Chinese characters! Amazing!”

“I can’t understand a word people are saying around here!”


“… There’s no way it’s because of the translator.”

“Ahem. That’s one way to put it.”

Leeha and Kijung-ssi giggled like teenage girls, prompting intervention from a Ram Long Group security guard.

Leeha suggested to Kijung-ssi, “How about we bet whether that guy will smile or not until we get back to Korea?”

After finishing a conversation through his in-ear, the burly man with sunglasses quietly stood still, and Leeha asked,

“Is Ram Hwayeon-nim not coming to the airport?”

“Exactly. It’s different from last time. I thought Ram Hwajung-nim would come along too.”

Upon hearing Leeha and Kijung-ssi’s remarks, his eyebrows twitched. He glared at Leeha in the wheelchair once, then stared at Kijung-ssi standing beside him. Of course, they couldn’t see his eyes clearly because of the sunglasses, but Leeha and Kijung-ssi felt it. Even without a reply, they could sense how upset he was. The burly man strode ahead without hesitation, and Leeha and Kijung-ssi hurriedly followed him. Leeha, due to the wheelchair, and Kijung-ssi, due to dragging the luggage cart, were slow, but the burly man showed no mercy.

“Hey, aren’t we invited as guests?”

“I don’t know! Hyung, you received the tickets. Didn’t they say anything? He seems like the kind of person who would be associated with words like confinement, detention, not invitation.”

Leeha and Kijung-ssi looked at each other and murmured, but no suitable answer came to mind. Leeha suddenly wondered if he should have whispered something to Ram Hwayeon before logging out, but it was already too late.

“Hurry up, please. The vehicle is waiting.”

“Yes!”

Leeha and Kijung had no choice but to comply with the burly man’s words. The man, whose size seemed a combination of Leeha and Kijung, had a low voice that seemed like it could only be formed in a cave. As soon as they left the building, what they saw was a black van. And the moment the door opened, Leeha finally felt a sense of relief.

“You must have had a hard time coming, Leeha-ssi.”

“Ah, Jachung-ssi – no, Jachung-nim!”

It was because Jachung, the assistant of Ram Hwayeon, had come out personally. Having entertained countless global political and business figures, he received Leeha and Kijung skillfully and kindly.

“Is this all your luggage?”

“Yes, yes!”

“Understood. Kimbo, load everything up. Let’s depart immediately.”


“Yes, sir.”

Once the burly man named Kimbo had loaded all the luggage, the van immediately departed. Hoping to see Ram Hwayeon or Ram Hwajung inside the van, they were disappointed as neither of them was there. Kijung was still slightly anxious, but Leeha whispered to him not to worry as long as Jachung was there; it wasn’t something like ‘human trafficking’.

“Thank you for inviting us.”

“You should thank the director. We’re heading there right now.”

“Ah! The Ram Long Group… uh, are we going to some headquarters or a building like that?”

As they drove along the coastal road and crossed the Cheung Ma Bridge, Jachung finally nodded his head.

“Yes. Our destination is a general hospital affiliated with the headquarters.”

“A general hospital? Is Ram Hwayeon sick or something?”

“No, hyung. Since he said it’s affiliated with the headquarters, she must be working there.”

“Hmm, hmm. So, Ram Hwayeon-ssi is going to guide us personally? Can’t wait to unpack, hehe.”

Leeha and Kijung speculated and fantasized, but Jachung didn’t give a clear answer, just looking at Leeha’s lower body with a slight smile and a hardened expression. Leeha and Kijung, who had expected a tumultuous welcome from Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung at the airport, found this reaction a bit unexpected.

However, that was brief, as they soon became immersed in the exotic scenery unfolding outside the window.

‘Leeha-ssi certainly has value, but Peng is also a formidable business strategist. It’s unpredictable how he will be asked to repay today’s debt, director…’

Unable to speak about the group’s circumstances, Jachung just had to stay silent. The black van passed through the Kowloon Peninsula and entered Hong Kong Island. The political and economic heart of Hong Kong, where the Ram Long Group’s hospital was located.

“Is this a hospital?”

“Our country’s general hospitals can’t even compare…”

This was the first surprise for Leeha and Kijung as they got out of the van. In the heart of Hong Kong, one of the world’s most expensive real estate locations, the vast area being used as a ‘hospital’ indicated immense wealth. Leeha and Kijung were once again impressed by the power of the global group Ram Long. But the surprises were just beginning.

“You can look around as much as you like, so let’s go inside.”

“Yes? Oh, yes.”

Jachung soothed Leeha and Kijung, who were looking up so much their necks could break, uttering ‘wow, wow’. Can you look around as much as you like?


Considering how often one visits a hospital, Jachung’s expression seemed a bit strange, but Leeha was in no state to think about that. Kimbo, the burly man, moved ahead of Jachung to clear the way. They received VIP treatment, with everything set up for them, including an elevator, to ensure they didn’t have to wait or experience any inconvenience.

Employees at the hospital, upon seeing Leeha – or more precisely, looking at Jachung – bowed and greeted them After wandering around the hospital, which seemed like a maze for about ten minutes, they heard,

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Oppa.”

“Ah, Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung-ssi!”

Leeha finally spotted the familiar hairstyles. Although not as vivid as the colors of Middle Earth, the red and blue hues of Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung were clearly visible as they greeted Leeha. Another man stood beside them.

“Ni hao, nice to meet you for the first time. I’m Ram Peng.”

A relatively young man with glasses and a slightly sneaky smile. His slightly slanted, squinted eyes resembled those of a rat, but they seemed more comical than crafty. Leeha hesitantly shook the hand he extended, and then regretted it.

“Hmm, hmm. I see. Yes, yes.”

Because Ram Peng was rubbing his hand as if kneading dough!

It would be embarrassing enough if a woman did this, let alone a man doing such a thing (?).

“What are you doing?!”

“Just checking your pulse for a moment.”

“Pulse? What pulse?”

Leeha was displeased but tried not to show it too much while looking at Ram Peng. He then turned to the patiently waiting Ram sisters.

‘Judging by the same surname – and this attitude – he must be a family member… What’s he doing?’

Why was this man behaving like this? And why were Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung just watching Ram Peng do this to Leeha? Leeha was more worried because the Ram sisters, who would usually greet and rush over excitedly, were just standing still.

“Anyway, we’re going to conduct a thorough examination for the surgery, but I had something else I was curious about.”

“Surgery…?”

Leeha tilted his head in confusion, but Ram Peng did not answer him. Instead, he just gave a meaningful smile to Ram Hwayeon.

“Indeed. Why noona was so absorbed-”

“Peng!”

“-Hehe! Okay, okay, I got it. Anyway, Leeha-nim? You can rest today, and we will start the examination tomorrow. That’s all for now.”

“Is the schedule alright?”

“Don’t worry. Not only Doctor Heinrich but also the German staff are all prepared. As noona requested’.”

“…Alright.”

Ram Peng spoke and Ram Hwayeon responded, but the one whose expression darkened was Jachung. And beside him, Leeha and Kijung, each with a couple of question marks above their heads.

What was that conversation about?

In the midst of this baffling dialogue, Leeha only caught one word. It was a name he could never forget.

“… Ram Hwayeon-ssi, who is Doctor Heinrich?”

“-Heinrich. Yes, that’s him. We scouted him to our hospital about a year ago.”

Kijung still had question marks floating above his head, but Leeha was different. The conversations in Seoul, doctor Heinrich, Ram Hwayeon’s invitation, the trip to Hong Kong, and the Ram Long Group’s hospital. Could all these be connected to that single reason?!

“Did you invite me here… for surgery on my lower body?”

“Well, I thought it would be better to let you know beforehand rather than watching you struggle to go to Germany.”

“Wait – just wait! This is so sudden – and without any warning -”

“Would you have come if I told you? Even knowing that Doctor Heinrich is not in Germany. Do you have any idea how long it would take for you to come here, arrange a direct consultation, and schedule the surgery?”

Ram Hwayeon’s voice was quite sharp.

Leeha was dumbfounded. He hadn’t asked for any of this, and now she was suddenly getting angry?

Without knowing about the deal between Ram Hwayeon and Ram Peng, Leeha couldn’t think otherwise. Especially since her words made sense, he had nothing to argue.

“It’s a consultation with a world-famous doctor. It’s not just a simple consultation but one that could lead to major surgery. You can’t book that in a day or two.”

“Surgery… That German doctor, you mean -”

Finally grasping the situation, Kijung’s jaw dropped. Ram Hwajung’s silence made sense too, understanding the importance of ‘this matter’. In the sudden quiet atmosphere, Leeha thought about Ram Hwayeon’s kindness and his own situation.

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

“Hmm?”

“Thank you. Really… thank you so much. Right. Such things can’t just happen with money alone. In that regard, your help will be a huge support.”

“Of course, it’s-”

“But I’m not ready yet.”

“What? What do you mean?”

Despite Ram Hwayeon’s sharp response, Leeha spoke gently. It was natural. Her actions were based entirely on kindness. But Leeha himself wasn’t ready. It wasn’t just a matter of mindset. It was a very realistic problem. Leeha began to speak in a calm and gentle voice.

(To be continued…)
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 “Of course, you’re going to take care of the surgery costs, right? But I don’t want to be in debt like that. And as for covering the surgery costs myself, the money I’ve saved so far is-”

“What? Puhahaha!”

And at that, Ram Hwayeon burst into laughter.

Leeha had seen her laugh many times, but never like this. It was a laugh that embarrassed even Leeha standing in front of her.

It took a few minutes before Ram Hwayeon, after her bout of laughter, spoke.

“Did you really think I was going to do that?”

“What, what?”

“Leeha, you still have a long way to go. Yes, a long way.”

“What do you mean a long way?”

“Of course, in terms of investing in you, the surgery cost isn’t much for me. But did you really think I was going to cover all the expenses?”

“Then-”

Leeha’s face flushed red. So it wasn’t that? She didn’t invite him for a free surgery?

Ram Hwayeon, seeing Leeha’s confusion, laughed again and said,

“Do you know how much the gold from Castle Dale you left behind, including your voyages to the New Continent, has accumulated? Just with that, most of the surgery costs can be covered. I intentionally didn’t mention it, and since there was no talk about Castle Dale and considering the fact that I invited you to Hong Kong, I thought you would’ve caught on. You really are below expectations at times like this, aren’t you?”

“Oppa’s a dud.”

“Right, Hwajung-ah?”

“Yep. Clueless.”

Ram Hwajung chimed in, laughing along with Ram Hwayeon. Leeha then remembered the matter of Castle Dale.

“Ah, that- so then-”

“It’s a bit short, actually. But considering how you’ve helped us so far, the remaining part will be taken from your future settlements from Castle Dale. Where else can you find a hospital that allows you to ‘pay in installments’ like this? Especially for a surgery under Doctor Heinrich.”


Ram Hwayeon was indeed Ram Hwayeon. Listening to her words, Leeha’s face lit up with joy. So he wouldn’t have to bear the mental burden anymore. Could he really receive such unexpected surgery here?

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi!”

“What, you’re going to hug me while sitting in that wheelchair?”

“Huh?”

Leeha, who was about to give a hug of joy, hesitated and stopped the wheelchair. Ram Hwayeon took a couple of steps back from him and turned her head to the side.

Then she said in a voice as tiny as an ant’s, “Ah, give me a hug after your legs are healed… and you can stand up. Ah, it’s hot! Jachung! Start the hospitalization procedures for Leeha. Ah, master Kay, I’ll arrange a room for you in the hotel right next door. That should do, right?”

It was warm compared to Korea, but still winter by Hong Kong standards.

Ram Hwayeon hurriedly left, fanning herself with her hand. Left without someone to share his joy, Leeha turned to Kijung in a rush (?).

Kijung was almost crying.

“…Hyung.”

“Kijung-ah…”

“Hyyyyyyyyyung———”

“Kijung-ah————!”

Kijung bent down as much as he could and hugged Leeha. Leeha patted the back of his younger cousin. It was unclear whether he was comforting Kijung or trying to hold back his own tears.

Ram Hwajung was grumbling, “I, I mean…”.

“Are you really okay with this, director? There’s no turning back now.”

“I know. Ah, don’t mention anything about Peng to Leeha.”

“…Of course.”

“Don’t make that face, Jachung. I’ve weighed the options. You know what I mean, right?”

“I understand. There’s no way the Headmaster’s choice could be wrong, but…”


There was a point Ram Hwayeon hadn’t mentioned to Leeha. Money? Indeed, the settlement from Castle Dale was sufficient to cover the expenses. However, rearranging the busy schedule of a renowned doctor and dedicating time solely for one person required significant influence.

This was something Ram Hwayeon, despite being part of the same group but a different affiliate, couldn’t achieve on her own. She inevitably had to rely on Ram Peng, who commanded the medical affiliate.

Jachung knew this too.

Even considering what Ram Hwayeon had to give up in her deal with Ram Peng, acquiring Leeha was a greater benefit. Yet, it was uncomfortable for him that Ram Hwayeon, whom he had always worked with, might suffer some loss. Her ability to weigh efficiency and rationality, and not regret once she had made a decision, was perhaps what set Ram Hwayeon apart from other employees.

“Regarding the information you mentioned last time… I’ve narrowed down what Ram Peng might want into two options. The more likely one involves a pharmaceutical company in the Netherlands.”

“Good, that’s expected. Anyway, it’s obvious what that spineless, grinning guy would want next… I’ll review the documents, so submit them.”

“Understood.”

“… And.”

“Yes?”

Ram Hwayeon suddenly stopped walking, turned around, and looked back.

She saw Leeha, wiping his tears while hugging Kijung.

“He’ll probably need to contact Korea, so provide all that convenience and if he can’t match the flight schedule, call our private jet again. If needed, I’ll speak to father.”

“Understood.”

“But, he should at least realize what I’m doing.”

However, there’s nothing more uncharacteristic than showing it off. At least, that was the case for Ram Hwayeon’s personality. She started walking quickly again, without even looking back at Leeha, pouting her lips. Jachung, standing behind her, bowed his head in silent comfort.

“He must understand your character, director.”

“Hmph. I know. Let’s go.”

Ram Hwayeon was inwardly hurt. She had awkwardly passed over the matter earlier, asking him to ‘repay’ her after the surgery when he could stand, but was he really going to postpone it?

‘I would have hugged out of gratitude. Tch, he hugs Master Kay just fine.’

Her complaints continued endlessly. Unaware of her feelings, Leeha was still overwhelmed with emotion, embracing Kijung.


***

It was only two hours later that a striking female duo, shining even in a crowd, arrived at Hong Kong International Airport.

“Bobae! Hurry up!”

“Wait, I have to set up roaming first to ask Kijung-ssi!”

“Keke, I wonder how surprised Leeha-ssi will be when he finds out we followed him?”

Shin Nara was excitedly hopping from foot to foot. She had been cautious not to accidentally mention following Leeha to Hong Kong, mindful of her loose lips. It was Bobae who had extracted the information about the trip to Hong Kong from Kijung (?) and informed Nara. However, unlike the excited Nara, Bobae’s expression was rather complex. Bobae was uncertain about their decision. She had issues to handle with Byulcho, and she wondered if it was alright to come like this.

What if Chiyou made a move? She could have already shown up, or if not, she might appear within a few hours. Could they successfully counter Chiyou without her? Besides Tale, there was Hyein.

She could call on former members of the old New Continent expedition like Biyemi or Jin Gonggong if needed, but Bobae had her own pride as a ‘ranker’.

“What does it matter? Do you think Byulcho would crumble just because you’re not there? If it were that weak, it would have already fallen apart.”

“But this time… Ah, but you’re right! It’s not like Kijung-ssi asked only me! I did inform the other guild members, so it should be fine.”

Byulcho was not a guild to be taken lightly. In most cases, it proved its strength with a few elite members. So, unless there was a ‘special situation’, there shouldn’t be any major issue with the Chiyou hunt.

At least, that’s what Bobae and Nara could deduce from the information they had.

Kijung: Hello? Bobae-ssi?

“Ah! Kijung-ssi!”

Kijung’s voice came from Bobae’s smartphone. She quickly moved her lips, signaling ‘I got it, I got it!’

Nara quickly put her ear to the speaker of the smartphone.

Kijung: Is something wrong?

“No, why would something be wrong? Just called because I was bored. What are you doing right now, Kijung-ssi?”

Kijung: Ah, I’m in Hong Kong right now.

“Yes, that’s what I thought.”

Kijung: … What? What do you mean by that?

Kijung was already puzzled by the sudden call, and now he couldn’t understand what she meant!

His voice shook with confusion.

Bobae barely held back her laughter, while Nara was chuckling beside her.

“That’s what I mean, what are you doing in Hong Kong?”

Kijung: Ah, I was just about to leave the accommodation-

“As much as I dislike Petyr, I get where he’s coming from. Surpri——-ise! Kijung-ssi! It’s Nara! Bobae and I are in Hong Kong too! Where are you going? We’ll come to you!”

Kijung: What, Nara- Ack!?

Kijung gasped and let out an incomprehensible exclamation. His words were so tangled that a series of coughs echoed through the smartphone for quite some time.

Bobae and Nara holding their stomachs and laughing uncontrollably was a natural response. Of course, they were the only ones who could afford to laugh at that moment.

Kijung, covering the phone’s transmitter with his hand, hurriedly ran to Leeha.

“Ah, ah, eong-ah! Eong-ah!”

“Oh dear, hospital gowns are uncomfortable in every country. Kijung-ssi, am I okay?”

“This, this is not the time to talk about that!”

“Huh? What are you talking about?”

“Bo- Bobae-ssi and Nara-ssi are in Hong Kong right now?! They’re asking where I am!”

Leeha and Kijung could only stare blankly at each other.

A faint voice was leaking from Kijung’s smartphone, saying ‘Hello? Kijung-ssi? Hello?’

“Leeha-ssi! Why? Why are you like this? Are you hurt?”

“No, no, it’s not that – You must have heard the rough explanation earlier -”

“Why? Why are you in a hospital in Hong Kong?”

***

Nara’s eyes were almost rolling back. Kijung looked at Bobae and asked, ‘Didn’t you explain?’ to which Bobae replied, ‘Why wouldn’t I have? I talked about it all the way here in the taxi.’ However, judging by Nara’s reaction, it was as if she was hearing about Leeha’s situation for the first time.

Leeha was lying on an adjustable bed, set up so he could lean his upper body comfortably, looking at Nara.

Just meeting his gentle gaze was enough for Nara to calm down a bit.

“Nara-ssi.”

“Yes, yes.”

“I’m having surgery on my lower body. I only just came to accept it a few hours ago myself, so it’s natural for you to be shocked, but… you don’t have to worry too much.”

“Will you be okay after the surgery? I’m sure you said before, Leeha-ssi-”

“Yes, that’s right. Back then, I still had a long way to go in terms of saving money, and it was uncertain what the doctors would do. But that -”

“I’ve solved it all. Shin Nara, what are you doing here? I don’t think Ha Leeha-ssi called you.”

Creak.

That was when Ram Hwayeon entered the single-patient room where Leeha was. She, who had changed her clothes by then, was leaning against the door, looking at the people in the room. Specifically, she was glaring back and forth between Nara and Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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 “Le, Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

Ram Hwayeon stepped aside from the door as she saw Leeha’s flustered face. A group of nurses in uniform bustled in, approaching Leeha.

“You might still be a bit jet-lagged, but the examination isn’t hard, so we’ll start right away. Everyone’s equipped with translators, so speak up if there’s any difficulty. And this. This is my direct hotline, so if you’re having trouble communicating with others, contact me.”

While the nurses were attaching various devices to Leeha, she handed him something resembling a small walkie-talkie. As Leeha nodded in confusion, Shin Nara had stepped back a foot from his bed. Ram Hwayeon looked at Shin Nara. Shin Nara looked back at Ram Hwayeon.

The two women’s eyes met, and for a moment, there was a tense silence.

Shin Nara then approached her and said, “Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

Step, step.

Neither woman was short, but Shin Nara’s not insignificant height made her almost level with Ram Hwayeon. In the midst of this, Shin Nara, displaying an almost violent intensity, left Ram Hwayeon with no room for confusion.

“What, what?! You’re not suggesting we fight in the hospital, right? Remember, this isn’t your turf, shin Na-”

The atmosphere was palpably tense.

“Even though I trust you’ll do well, I ask you to take good care of Leeha-ssi. I understand it’s not going to be an easy surgery, but I’m counting on you to give it special attention.”

Just as Ram Hwayeon was about to raise her hand in a sharp gesture, Shin Nara bowed her head to her.

“Nara-ya.”

“Nara-ssi?!”

This sudden act left Bobae, Kijung, and even Leeha startled. Ram Hwayeon bit her lip tightly. She would have preferred an outright outburst rather than this. But what did this behavior signify? In front of Ha Leeha, and in front of her, was this woman’s heart so resolute?

“Tsk, handling stuff like this means you, and- need to be told what to do? I’m not so stupid that I can’t handle it. You’re ‘noble’, right? Both of you stop the nonsense and enjoy Hong Kong. I’ll book the room next to Master Kay for you. Humph.”

With a swift turn, Ram Hwayeon left the hospital room abruptly. Shin Nara remained bowing her head. And surrounded by nurses, Leeha, with all sorts of examination equipment attached, couldn’t do anything but lie there speechless.

The serious mood didn’t last long. Nara broke into a bright smile and lifted the spirits by saying, “That’s great, Leeha-ssi!”

Bobae and Kijung also began to chatter and enjoy themselves. What about Bobae, who ended up using the same floor, the room next to Kijung’s? Once Bobae realized that what Kijung had referred to as ‘accommodation’ was a Mandarin Oriental-grade luxury hotel, her expression brightened even more.

“Ram Hwayeon is so generous! Though, she might just ask us to pay at checkout…”


“Bobae-ssi, really, Ram Hwayeon isn’t that kind of woman. How much-”

“What? ‘How much’ what? Kijung-ssi, are you already falling for Ram Hwayeon after just seeing her today?”

“No, what nonsense are you talking about!”

The lively noise in Leeha’s single-patient room was interrupted an hour later by another visitor. A little girl with blue-black hair swinging walked into Leeha’s hospital room and stood still.

“Ram… Hwajung-ssi?”

“I want to see Oppa.”

Step, step, step, thump!

She took a seat in one of the chairs beside Leeha’s bed, saying nothing else except that she had come to see Leeha. Ram Hwayeon would have been better! Ram Hwajung, who hardly communicated properly, was almost like an object of avoidance for all the users (?) present.

What’s there to look at?

To the left of Leeha, who was lying down, was Ram Hwajung, and to the right, was Shin Nara. And after Ram Hwajung entered, even Bobae and Kijung couldn’t chat properly.

“Ho, it feels like we’re on a ship heading to a new era, not in a Hong Kong hospital.”

“Hm, I was just about to say that to Bobae-ssi.”

Awkwardness, excitement, and anticipation were all mixed up in the Hong Kong hospital. It wasn’t until about a day later, after a thorough examination, that Leeha’s surgery schedule was finally set.

Two days later, the surgery would take place, bringing good news along with a call from Tale to Kijung.

The atmosphere in the hospital room froze for a moment.

『Yamato』… you say?”

Kijung muttered the ominous name under his breath.

***

Biyemi: Kitkit, one person suspected to be from the Shinobigumi has entered the northeast entrance of Chesi.

Tale: Hm, understood.


Tale nodded as he received Biyemi’s whisper. The responsibility was not light.

‘With Kay and Bobae absent, I must fulfill my duties diligently.’

Tale knew Kijung had gone to Hong Kong and was not yet close enough with Bobae.

He simply nodded when he heard that Bobae couldn’t log in due to personal reasons, thinking ‘As an athlete, that’s only proper.’ If he knew that the two were chattering and shopping in Hong Kong, even a saint-like Tale might have been a little upset.

The task of eradicating Chiyou was important to Byulcho.

“Shall we continue?”

“I have nothing to say to you.”

“…You should know your limits.”

Tale was in the central square of Minis’s village, chesi.

The central square wasn’t very large in this small village, inevitably leading to encounters with well-known members of Shinobigumi, like Sasuke.

“I’d like to say the same. You better leave now. Hyein will be arriving soon. I might hold back since I’m in the village, but I wonder if he will.”

“No.”

“You’re not a stranger, we were once in the same group, so a little respect would be nice.”

Sasuke clenched his teeth but couldn’t attack Tale. If it was about level or strength stats, Sasuke was far higher. If it were an assassination, Sasuke would definitely win. But this wasn’t an assassination situation. In this case, Tale’s ‘physical’ capabilities would be powerful.

The way a real-life 5th dan kendo practitioner moves and finds openings, combined with Middle Earth’s skills, would create a tremendous synergy, which Sasuke, once a member of Byulcho, knew well.

“You talk of respect. And I’m not asking, I’m warning.”

“Huh… Whether it’s a request, warning, or advice, I’ve heard enough. Leave now. If you’re around when Chiyou is revived, I’ll definitely kill you.”

As Sasuke emphasized his words, Tale finally turned to look at him.

Seeing the fiery eyes of a middle-aged man, Sasuke had nothing more to say. Especially since there were flashes of purple light near the entrance of Chesi Village.

“Tsk. You’ll regret this.”


Whoosh!

Sasuke disappeared in an instant. At the same time, Hyein appeared beside Tale.

“Tale hyungnim? Sasuke just-”

“Hm. He gave me a warning. Telling me to be careful.”

“A warning…? And you just watched? Tsk. If I had arrived a bit earlier, I could have torn that guy apart.”

Tale flinched momentarily at Hyein’s fierce words.

Just 10 minutes ago, when they were whispering, Hyein had seemed like a librarian, but when it came to Shinobigumi, he was more like an executioner.

Sreeeeech—

Just then, the sound of a hawk’s cry echoed through the skies above Chesi Village.

Tale and Hyein, along with other Byulcho members scattered throughout Chesi, looked up. It was a signal from Jin Gonggong, gliding over the entire village.

Tale: What’s happening?

Kijung Gonggong: Something’s coming! About 2km away? Countless numbers, a huge dust cloud rising from the Silver Plains!

Tale: The Silver Plains?

Jin Gonggong: What on earth is that-

Tale: Please find out. I’ll prepare for defense.

Jin Gonggong: Got it!

After finishing his whisper with Jin Gonggong, Tale contacted all Byulcho members in Chesi.

Silver Plains, 2km, large number of unidentified users approaching

Even without much information, they easily deduced they were ‘users.’ While monsters attacking the village in quest-like events had happened several times, ‘Chesi’ didn’t fall under that category.

Considering what Sasuke had just mentioned, Tale naturally assumed they were ‘users.’

“Hyein, the space is-”

“Yes. I don’t know for sure, but when that group enters Chesi, it’s likely when Chiyou will log in. I’ll block the space to match that timing.”

“Ugh.”

Hyein instantly understood Tale’s hint. However, there was still something odd.

“But why call all of Shinobigumi now? Especially from one direction…”

Haven’t they experienced several defeats already? If they were going to use this strategy, why didn’t they do it earlier? From the first time they were killed by Leeha until now, there was only one reason.

‘Was it the ranking drop that bothered them? So, they gather all of Shinobigumi for a counterattack…?’

Hyein could only think of this explanation. But she was confident. After all, Byulcho’s goal was only Chiyou’s assassination! No matter who they were, they couldn’t cause a disturbance inside the village.

By blocking the space at the right time, the venom mage Biyemi would poison Chiyou with a single attack.

‘And then I’ll use blink with Biyemi-nim to escape.’

The plan was perfect. They had enough guards and sentinels. Hyein was confident.

Eeeeee, eEEEEE, eEEEEE, eEEEEE, eEEEE1-

That was until Jin Gonggong added two more cries.

“Damn!”

“What’s happening?”

Tale clenched his teeth. Flames burst from his sword.

“I don’t know what that cunning woman has done outside, but we need to prepare.”

“Who is it?”

Tale whispered again to all Byulcho members and looked at Hyein with a grim expression.

“We can identify three. Igor and Faust, and the tamer Yongyong.”

“Agromni Igor? Faust?”

“Plus, four outsiders confirmed by Jin Gonggong. There’s no count of Czar Guild or Faust’s minions.”

“Damn. We need to call for reinforcements.”

“Got anyone to call?”

“Close by, we have Rashian’s Bantal-nim and Amonsan Zeye. I’ve sent a whisper.”

“Tanks from the New Continent Expedition.”

Of course, they would be helpful. But could they use Chain Teleport Scrolls immediately?

Tale was skeptical. Even if they weren’t busy, what if they needed to stop by a village for preparations?

“… They’re coming.”

The crowd now visible to the naked eye would arrive in Chesi before they could get reinforcements. Dust rose beyond the fence.

“Prepare for battle! These aren’t the types to avoid fighting just because it’s inside the village! Everyone except Biyemi-nim, form groups for battle!”

The distance was now less than 300m.

Tale tapped Hyein’s shoulder, who was still focused on whispering.

“Let’s fight.”

A massive purple barrier enveloped Chesi Village. They had ‘first’ blocked the space from the other side.

“Kyakyakyak! Just killing this trash is worth so much?! Furious, furious! Wipe them all out!”

“Didn’t I say I’d get revenge someday? ‘Dark Promotion’, go, my lovely Dullahan!”

The guard at the entrance of Chesi Village was the first to spill blood. The former agents of the Demon King’s army had entered. Into Chesi, one of the smallest villages in Minis.

(To be continued…)
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 “Uh? A battle? Where?”

Sapak, sapak.

A user walking towards Chesi Village momentarily stopped and stared into space.

A tiny fairy, barely visible, was frantically moving its mouth.

“In the village? My, that’s bold. Are you saying that a spatial barrier was set up because of the battle? Are they and Chiyou at such odds? To the point of fighting inside the village-”

Gwa-gwa-aa——-!

Suddenly, a massive explosion occurred in Chesi Village.

Watching the flames shooting up into the sky, the user’s eyes widened in astonishment. They were eyes devoid of any black pupils.

“-Amazing…! Right, right, if I go now, there will surely be something for Byulcho to handle. Let’s go!”

“..!’,

Shwoo-aaaak-!

She was barefoot. She didn’t seem to be running particularly fast. However, with each step she took, as if pushed by the air, her body shot forward instantly. In no time, she had entered Chesi Village from over 500 meters away.

“Don’t be greedy, maintain the formation, maintain the formation!”

Though Tale shouted, Byulcho was already being overwhelmed.

They were outnumbered, and among the opponents were two top 10 rankers. Users like Hyein and Biyemi certainly had overwhelming skills, but they were still lacking compared to them.

“Kyahaha, space magician! I know a bit of space magic too! The kind that separates the upper and lower body!”

“Cough, 『Position Change』!”

Igor, swinging his giant saw blade sword, suddenly changed his position to the roof of a house.

Boom-!

With one powerful swing, he completely destroyed a chimney. If that attack had hit Hyein’s body, he would have really experienced ‘space magic’.


『Wandering Buffalo’s Headbutt』!”

『Bone Shield』.”

Woo-ooo-ooo———–!

A giant buffalo’s head made of mana covered Jin Gonggong’s head, but it couldn’t penetrate Faust’s bone shield.

Crunch, crunch, some of it turned into powder, but there was still plenty of thickness left in his bone shield.

“Ah-haha! Dance, explode, get engulfed!”

“Kraa-aa-ack!”

“Ta, Tale hyung- Aaack!”

While dozens of crows interfered with targeting, and a giant frog by the user’s side spat water bubbles for harassment, a Saber Tiger pounced and tore apart a Byulcho user.

Another unwelcome guest in Chesi, a tamer from the New Continent Expedition, ‘Yongyong’, was also an unpleasant presence for Byulcho.

Members of Byulcho were dying all around. Trapped in a spatial barrier, there was no escape. There was no way out but to be crushed here. Tale gritted his teeth.

The battle that started in the center of Chesi Village was now being pushed to the edge of the village.

And there was a woman leisurely watching all this.

“I clearly said it…

‘I’ll use everything.’ Now be prepared.”

It wasn’t just because of Igor’s leadership, Faust’s summons, ór Yongyong’s tamed pets. The main reason Byulcho was losing in this melee was because of another force of Chiyou.

“Chiyou-nim, it’s a relief you’re safe. But, Igor or Faust are not the issue-”

“Hehe, Sasuke?”

“Ha!”

Sasuke quickly replied with a shiver in his expression. There were many unknown forces stirring in Chesi Village, but the joy of having finally turned everything around was far greater.


“Did you think I was only running an ‘Intelligence Guild’?”

“……Yes?”

And then, his expression had to change in an instant.

“Sure, playing in 『Shinobigumi』 was the most fun so I left it alone for a while… but you know I love ‘collecting’? Information collection was my favorite.”

“……Then these people are-”

“My collected guild members. All of them are outsiders.”

“Guild… members? Not Shinobigumi but a different guild-”

“Yes. It’s called 『Yamato』. Hehe, don’t be upset that I didn’t tell you, Sasuke. Now that it’s come to this- huh?!”

The moment Chiyou smiled and spoke, something burst out of a building in the village square. A figure with green scales, throwing off its robe and quickly rushing towards Chiyou!

In an instant, the figure closed the distance, a black dagger in hand. The dagger went whoosh, piercing the skin. However, the expression on Biyemi, who stabbed with the dagger, was far from good.

“Ka-hak…”

“Sa, sasukit- Ki, kikik, this-!”

Biyemi retrieved the dagger and tried to stab Chiyou again, but it was too late.

Chiyou had already created distance. Sasuke, who was stabbed by Biyemi’s dagger, was starting to bubble and melt away from the wound.

“Chiyou-ni- ee-”

“Woong… Thank you, Sasuke-kun. When you log in, I’ll tell you everything about 『Yamato』, so don’t be too upset. And of course… 『Sword Dance』.”

Shwook, shwook, shwook-!

Five swords materialized beside Chiyou.

“I’ll avenge you, too.”

Biyemi quickly grasped the situation and started to step back stealthily, but Chiyou was faster.


Chiyou rushed towards Biyemi. Jin Gonggong, watching from a distance, shouted.

“Bi, Biyemi niiiim————!”

“Ki, kikik, damn- to die so vainly-”

***

“Biyemi!”

“Biyemi-ssi!”

Tale and Hyein also shouted, but they were struggling to fend off the onslaught of Igor and Faust.

Jin Gonggong, too, was blocked by Faust and could do nothing.

“It was annoying. Biyemi, no, it was Nguyen, wasn’t it?”

“Kihiiit-!”

Shiiik, shiiik-!

Biyemi, is currently a venom mage but a former assassin!

Barely twisting his body, Biyemi dodged one heart-piercing sword and struck another. The poison-laden dagger could only defend so much.

Even after barely handling two, three remaining heart-piercing swords were surging toward the Lizardia’s body.

Biyemi glared at Chiyou with wide-open eyes.

Gwa-gwa-gwa-gwako———–!

It was then that Lizardia’s vision was obscured. Suddenly, a huge stone wall rose right in front of her.

“What, what?! What is this?”

Chiyou frowned.

Was there a rock mage in Byulcho? That thought came to mind, but that wasn’t it.

“Ah, ahaha… I naturally thought Byulcho was winning. Gnoem! I told you to be more careful when making a defensive wall, didn’t I?”

Amidst the spreading screams throughout, a light voice quietly filled Chesi Village.

Chiyou’s head turned. She, who had dealt with information in Shinobigumi, would not fail to recognize the user who had entered Chesi Village.

“……I see. A spirit. 『The Sorceress of the White Snow』, Prea? Are you also part of Byulcho?”

“No, not exactly. I apologize for the intrusion. Gnoem! Quickly lower the wall!”

Barefooted, the Wood Elf known as the Sorceress of the White Snow, Prea, kicked the large rock beside her, thump, thump, with her foot.

It was somewhat smaller than the giant boulder she once rode on. The rock made a thunderous roar, woohoohoohoo, and soon the stone wall that had divided Biyemi and Chiyou was absorbed back into the ground.

“Daring to interfere with my attack- Huh? Oh, I guess it didn’t interfere after all…”

“Ki, kihit… Damn… witch-”

“Bi, Biyemi niiiiim!”

When Chiyou’s three heart-piercing swords were rushing towards Biyemi, a stone wall had risen at the exact timing, seemingly nullifying Chiyou’s attack. However, only two of the heart-piercing swords were blocked by the wall. One of them had accurately lodged into the Lizardia’s abdomen. Biyemi’s eyes flashed menacingly, but her tail was already turning to ash, starting to crumble.

“Whether related to Byulcho or not- I will have my revenge… kikik.”

“Ugh, buzz off.”

“Kyaaak!”

Thwook, thwook, thwook, thwook-!

Four heart-piercing swords were completely lodged into Biyemi’s body. Lizardia’s body quickly turned to ash. Tale and Hyein bit their lips. But that couldn’t reverse death. The battle was nearly lost, and now they had to strategize to save even one more person.

‘Prea is definitely ranked 11th, but why is she here?’

Friend or foe? Was she trying to save Biyemi? What’s her relationship with Chiyou? The ambiguous position of the spirit mage’s arrival confused not only Byulcho but also the users on Chiyou’s side. For a brief moment, everyone was caught in panic. Then, with Faust’s loud explosion, everything shattered.

“Kwooaaargh——!”

Emerging amidst the dust was a bear, larger than the ‘little ones’ below! Of course, everyone knew who it was.

“Jin Gonggong-nim! Come back!”

“Hyein!”

Hyein tried to stop Jin Gonggong, but it was Tale who restrained him. Watching the giant bear charging, Tale was ready.

“Ne, ne?”

“Run away. Take as many as you can with you. Jin Gonggong-ssi and I will handle this.”

“Tale hyung?!”

“If I die and log out, I’ll contact Kay. We need to preserve our forces first. Run.”

“But- Understood. I’m sorry.”

Hyein’s hesitation ended as quickly as it began. It might have seemed too hasty, but Tale smiled.

“Sorry for what? It’s more logical for me to die than you, so you’re just following orders.”

“No, it’s not like that-”

“No. You were always that kind of person, that’s why you were the guild master. Retreat.”

“Thank you.”

Hyein, who had been with Byulcho’s first generation for a long time, knew Tale well.

At this point, it was Hyein, not the sub-guild master, who could lead the guild members.

Hyein immediately retreated.

Watching him hold off Czar’s forces and Faust’s summons, gathering Byulcho’s remaining members, Tale murmured.

“So much for saving face in front of Ha Leeha. I boasted so much… at least I heard the guild name 『Yamato』.”

“Kwoarrrrrrr——-shi”

“Even with new information and capturing Chiyou again, there’s something to say! Let’s go, Jin Gonggong sir!”

Kukukuk, kukukuk, kukukuk

Running across the torn earth, a giant bear.

Tale approached Chiyou with stealthy steps, surprising her!

Czar’s guild members swung their swords at them.

The giant bear, with part of its back fur torn off, ignored it and kept running.

The non-targeted spells aimed at Tale were more than five, but he dodged them with pure movement.

“Cough, a Highlander with such movement-”

“Kyakyakyak! That brat is not an ordinary Highlander! That flaming sword! I remember!”

And Tale’s intent hit the mark. After all, Igor and Faust were brought by Chiyou. They had to listen to Chiyou’s orders. So, what then?

‘If I attack Chiyou, the tip of the sword will definitely change direction! The center line of the enemy is always important in swordsmanship.’

Igor charged at Tale, while Faust and Yongyong’s ‘pets’ rushed towards Jin Gonggong.

Thanks to their willingness to face death and draw attention, Hyein was able to gather enough of Byulcho’s members.

‘Woong… What’s going on. I thought Byulcho was capturing Chiyou, but it turns out Chiyou is sweeping Byulcho… And those people are definitely Igor and Faust. If they’ve joined hands with Chiyou, then Byulcho has no chance. Plus, there are a few familiar outsiders too!’

And watching all this, the Sorceress of the White Snow, Prea, looked on, not knowing what to do.

(To be continued…)
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 “So, in the end… Chiyou?”

Tale: Sorry. You must be listening, Leeha. I apologize.

At the point of explaining the situation, Kijung had already switched to speakerphone. Tale’s heavy voice echoed through the hospital room from the other end of the phone. The fact that Tale was making this call, and the fact he was apologizing, almost certainly indicated the outcome of the last battle.

Tale had died, and Chiyou was not killed.

‘Tale, Jin Gonggong, and Biyemi’s deaths…’

Even lying in bed, Leeha found the outcome unbelievable. There had been a glimmer of hope. But whether it was Igor or Faust, the forces that had joined hands with Chiyou had already been defeated once!

‘I defeated them even when they teamed up with Chiyou. So naturally, I thought they wouldn’t join hands again…’

Igor was no fool. Faust was no idiot. They were players who once joined forces with Chiyou but didn’t truly benefit from her. For such players to join hands with Chiyou again? It’s not impossible, but it seemed very unlikely.

“Why did Igor and Faust suddenly change their minds and side with Chiyou?”

Tale: It’s hard to say precisely, but I believe it’s because of the forces she brought.

“The forces? Are you talking about the 『Yamato』 guild you mentioned earlier?”

Tale: It’s not just about remembering the name. After researching online, I realized that everyone I had seen, fought, and remembered were ‘outsiders’. You probably understand what that means.

“……That’s impossible! Chiyou has a guild like that? A hidden guild made entirely of outsiders?”

Tale: From our encounter, that was the only conclusion I could draw. Not Shinobigumi, but a combat guild. 『Yamato』 was already prepared by her.

“But! As far as I know, she wasn’t the guild master of any guild-”

Tale: Who is the guild master of Shinobigumi?

Hearing Tale’s somber voice, Leeha came back to his senses.

Even after investigating Chiyou through Holy Grill, she was not listed as the guild master of any guild. It made sense. It was to hide Shinobigumi. But she was the actual leader of Shinobigumi. Then? It wasn’t impossible for Yamato as well.

‘She had another guild… Placing a figurehead as the leader, while she commands another guild?’

According to Tale, after his death, he confirmed through the internet that there were seven outsiders. If the concept of the 『Yamato』 guild is as such, even the unconfirmed members of Yamato would be no less skilled.


If Hyein struggled with them, it’s possible that other members were within the top 100 rankings.

“If it was the top 10, I might know, but not everyone remembers the faces and names in the top 100.”

She had such an incredible guild. Shinobigumi alone would be a handful for an ordinary person, let alone two!

But Leeha was not just amazed at Chiyou’s operational skills. More important was her mindset, her mentality. If a person had a knife in their pocket, they tend to want to use it. Shinobigumi, or rather, a guild dealing only with ‘information’, would have times when it couldn’t solve everything. Surely, she must have wanted to utilize that hidden combat guild 『Yamato』.

‘But she refrained. Until the very end. Even when she was about to die…’

Of course, she couldn’t allow more than three deaths, so she eventually had to reveal it. But the fact that she refrained from using the ‘combat guild’ until she was driven into a corner shows she didn’t have an ordinary mindset.

‘One does not pull the trigger until the perfect moment arrives.’

A mindset similar to that of a sniper. Leeha swallowed dryly. She will become even stronger. She will appear before Leeha stronger than ever.

“Ah! Tale hyung? What happened to the sorceress you mentioned earlier?”

Kijung remembered that Tale hadn’t spoken much about the sorceress. What had become of that sorceress who once saved Biyemi?

Tale: I don’t know. Why did Prea even appear, I’m not sure…

But even Tale didn’t know until the end.

***

A giant eagle clawed at the eyes of the giant bear.

Screams followed as it wildly flailed its legs, but its blind attacks found no target.

“Koo-woo-woo-woo”

Puhak, puhak-!

Faust’s Dullahans cut down Jin Gonggong. The giant bear fell sideways, thumping to the ground, and gradually turned to ash.

“Kyakya! As far as I know, last time too, he sacrificed his life to save someone. Is he doing that disgusting act again?”

“Someone like you, heuk… would never understand.”


“Acting all high and mighty with an arm torn off! Kyahaha!”

Barely standing using his sword as a cane, Tale, now missing one arm, struggled to maintain his balance.

The spatial barrier didn’t naturally disappear, but Hyein managed to create a hole and somehow saved the remaining members of Byulcho.

In the battle involving Igor, Faust, Yongyong, and numerous other outsiders and top 100 rankers, Byulcho miraculously minimized their losses.

“Tch, Igor, stop playing around and just kill him. This is a major loss.”

Chiyou’s face was twisted in frustration. After revealing her ‘final, ultimate card’, she couldn’t completely annihilate Byulcho!

‘I knew Master Kay, Bobae, and Ha Leeha weren’t here. That’s why I brought the best to sweep them all… But besides catching Tale, Biyemi, and Jin Gonggong, just a few small fry?’

As Chiyou scowled, her gaze caught someone. A slim figure stood out even in the blood-soaked village.

“Ah! Speaking of which… Prea? What are you doing here?”

Chiyou quickly put on a businesslike smile and approached her. Tale also looked in that direction. What was the reason for the sorceress’s arrival here?

‘Was it just a coincidence that she helped Biyemi once?’

Tale was secretly hopeful. This was an opportunity with Chiyou approaching her.

Prea was also a top-ranking expert, ranked 11th. Surely, she had the power to use spirits to burn Chiyou to the bone when she was off-guard.

As Chiyou swayed her hips approaching Prea, Prea took a step back, shaking her hands nervously.

“You weakling, what are you looking at?! Eh!?”

“—-!”

Tale felt his head being sliced off, flying through the air. Right before logging out, the last thing Tale saw was Prea’s smiling face.

“Ah, there, um- haha, Chiyou-nim, I’ve heard of your fame. It’s also my first time meeting Igor-nim and Faust-nim. Hello?”

The tall Wood Elf, Prea, awkwardly smiled and greeted the people in front of her. She wanted to use teleport to escape right away, but there was no chance. Hyein hadn’t completely broken the spatial barrier, only creating a hole to use. And it was too late to walk out now.

‘Ah, this is annoying! Why did I even come here! Of all times!’


Her purpose was precisely to help Byulcho assassinate Chiyou. But in the current situation, what could Prea do by herself? Side with Byulcho? Prea glanced at Chiyou’s feet approaching her. Beside her, Tale’s head lay disconnected.

‘He seems to be quite a high-ranking person. In this state, even if I side with them…’

There was no reason to. Even if she did, there’s no one to acknowledge her. Prea couldn’t clearly decide what position to take.

‘Hmm… It seemed like she wanted to protect Biyemi… But then, being ranked 11th, it’s obvious ‘what she would have thought’…’

Chiyou didn’t miss Prea’s ‘thinking’ expression. She accurately saw through what Prea was thinking, why she came here, and what her intentions were.

“Oh no! No! What are you saying! Have you ever seen me obsessed with rankings? I just heard there was a dragon lair near the Silver Plains, so I thought of going there to sightsee.”

“Then that stone wall magic earlier-”

“Ma, magic? No! Sometimes spirits go out of control- Ehehe.”

Prea laughed shyly, her white eyes curving like crescent moons.

It was then that Igor stepped forward, ahead of Chiyou.

“Now that I think about it, I’ve never had the pleasure of fighting you. Rank 11 should have some achievements to show, right?”

His movement, lifting his saw-toothed sword, was swift and unhesitant.

It seemed he might strike down Prea at any moment, and while Chiyou flinched at the gesture, Prea’s expression turned sharp.

“If you swing that, you’ll regret it, Igor-nim.”

“Kyahat?! What? Regret? I know, 『Sorceress of the White Snow』. You don’t mingle with people much, thinking you’re something special because you’ve got a few spirits to level up with. You think I don’t know that’s all you’ve got for skills-”

“That ‘little’ skill of mine is enough to burn you to ashes right now.”

Igor couldn’t swing his sword. He was too taken aback by her audacious statement. Who’s killing whom? As Igor’s expression began to turn fierce, Prea spoke again.

“And my spirits are my strength, but you leveled up thanks to those underlings over there, right? Is that your ‘skill’?”

Her wide-mouthed smile shone even in Chesi, now devoid of NPCs. But it didn’t reach Igor. Just as the Russian giant was about to swing his sword, Chiyou stepped in front of him.

“Cuckoo, that’s enough, enough. You’re an interesting person, Prea-nim.”

“Ha, I always play with spirits and have trouble talking with users. Was it interesting?”

Prea asked with an innocent face. Chiyou’s mouth also curled up slightly.

‘Look at this… She’s not just bluffing. What kind of person is she? I have some information, but she’s quite different, isn’t she?’

While there was general information about her skills, there was no information on her ‘personality’ even within Shinobigumi.

Chiyou felt intrigued by Prea. Even with the overwhelming situation involving Igor and Czar, Faust and the Undead, Yongyong and his Tamed Pets, and Chiyou’s own Yamato. To have confidence in front of all these! Whether it was bravado or truth, to Chiyou, it was fascinating.

‘There was only one other person like this.’

That was why Chiyou took an interest in Prea. The person who comes to mind, the one she wanted but ultimately couldn’t have.

‘Ha Leeha.’

Chiyou smiled. Then she spoke.

“Prea-nim?”

“Yes?”

“Would you like to join us for a cup of tea? I have some things to discuss with Igor, Faust, and Yongyong anyway. It would be great if you could join us.”

It was a clear invitation to recruit her. Prea responded immediately.

“Sure, why not. I’m a bit tired of chatting with spirits all the time anyway.”

“Woo-hoo-hoo———-!”

As soon as she finished speaking, a small rock formed beside Prea, screaming.

Prea kicked the rock again, annoyed.

“Gnoim! I told you not to pop up anytime!”

Chiyou watched this with a somewhat bewildered expression. She chuckled and turned around.

“The NPC’s are all wiped out, so Minis Kingdom’s defense force will be here within an hour. Let’s have our talk quickly.”

“What’s there to talk about so fast? Kyakat, I thought you just carried around big-mouths, but you’ve hidden some cuties, haven’t you?”

“Hehe, if you don’t want to get stabbed by those ‘cuties’, you better watch your mouth, Igor.”

(To be continued…)
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 Igor sarcastically remarked on Chiyou’s secret weapon, 『Yamato』.

Despite his nature to get provoked by Chiyou’s challenging warning, Igor refrained from saying more. In reality, the number of outsiders she led was greater than the Czar guild members present here, and their level was higher as well. With Chiyou and about three outsiders, Igor thought they could be a match for himself.

“So, what now? I thought we were going to skin these NPCs and use this place as a hideout. If Minis’s defense force is coming-”

“Faust! Why do you always have to say such dumb things? Everyone knows I was trying to map the New Continent.”

Chiyou scolded the white-scaled Lizardia and scanned the surroundings. The news that Chiyou had gone to Fibiel Kingdom as a special envoy of Minis was already known to the high-level users. Everyone nodded at this fact, but no one knew how it related to the current situation.

‘To think I’m leading these idiots… Well, idiots are easier to manage.’

Chiyou touched her forehead and slowly unfolded her plan.

“Don’t you understand why I made that proposal? Minis could have ended up with barren land, so why did Minis accept it? It’s because Minis didn’t care what land they got. Neither did I.”

“What do you mean by that, Chiyou-nim?”

“Currently, for Minis, Fibiel, Kraven, and Shazrashian, the four countries know about the New Continent. No matter what land is chosen, it doesn’t matter. No matter how it’s divided, I planned to take ‘the best land.’ The New Continent is currently no man’s land.”

Even if each country managed its land, they couldn’t immediately deploy all their forces, build fortresses, cities, etc.

Chiyou knew this very well and hence kept her plan to secure the ‘most desirable land’ regardless of each country’s choice while convincing the royal family of Minis to hand over the land.

Faust, the smartest among them, somewhat grasped what Chiyou was saying. But even the top 10 Necromancer shook his head in disbelief.

“…You’re planning to establish a country? Do you think that’s possible?”

“Of course, it’s impossible. Such a foolish idea. However… it worked out well. While the four countries are busy fighting over a single jointly-managed village… creating ‘one village’ somewhere far away seems feasible, right?”

That was Chiyou’s plan.

Now that the true nature of ‘Shinobigumi’, the intelligence network, had been exposed, she knew further activities would be impossible. While it wouldn’t be entirely useless unless completely disbanded, its use of ‘bought NPCs’ in various countries and major cities would still be effective.

However, the use of these NPCs for intelligence activities would never be the same as before, and if Byulcho spread rumors in the community, the fatal blow to user-based espionage activities would be inevitable.

So, what then?

‘I’ll just have to break it all myself. Now it’s time to take off Shinobigumi’s mask. In the New Continent, which will be the main stage for future activities.’ Chiyou’s determination was extraordinary. The idea of establishing ‘their village’ in the New Continent was ambitious, leaving other users dumbstruck.


Yongyong spoke up after a while.

“But, but Chiyou-nim! Even though I’ve been to the New Continent, a village isn’t something you can just build with users! Where will you get the NPCs from, and how will you attract users to use the village-”

“That’s where ‘money’ comes in, Yongyong-ssi. Setting up shops, and recruiting people to manage them isn’t hard. I can even repurpose the bars I’m currently managing. And you, just keep increasing the number of Tamed Pets in the New Continent. We can use them as guards, right?”

Did Chiyou seduce him because he was captivated by his appearance? Chiyou didn’t just attract people for one reason. In her grand scheme, Yongyong will be of considerable help.

“Kyakak! Money? Do you think the money from the Old Continent will work with those paleo brutes? The feast you set will become a party for those beast brats.”

“As always, thinking like a bear. Who said we’re building near the paleo tribes’ settlement? Do you think I would pick such a place?”

Chiyou flicked her index finger from side to side. All eyes in the collapsed Chesi Village were drawn to her hand.

“To make the most money at a festival… you need to set up a stall right where the festival happens. Sasuke will return in ten days, then we’ll leave for the New Continent immediately. Get ready.”

Chiyou spoke decisively. The outsiders of Yamato erupted in an excited cheer, “Woo-woo-woo-woo——–!”

As they erupted in an excited cheer, Prea was shocked by Chiyou’s confident and bold plan and the background to implement it. She knew Chiyou wasn’t just a simple dancer, but what was all this? An intelligence guild? Shinobigumi?

She wondered if she understood everything correctly.

“Will you join us, Prea-nim?”

Chiyou asked her again.

“After hearing such an interesting story, I can’t pretend to be ignorant.”

To withdraw after hearing this story? Then she would have to withstand a joint attack by the members present here. Prea realized why Chiyou had explained in such detail, but it was already too late. The Sorceress of the White Snow smiled and took Chiyou’s offered hand. Igor and Faust smiled sardonically.

Prea looked at them.

‘Though they aren’t Chiyou’s guild members, they must have their own thoughts… but-‘

Regardless of what they were thinking, Chiyou must have already read all their minds. Perhaps even Prea’s own thoughts. As this realization hit her, Prea felt an uncontrollable thrill. She was quite renowned in Middle Earth, but this emotion was something she hadn’t felt before.

‘This will be interesting.’

***


“Are you feeling okay?”

“Yes. The food is surprisingly good, and I even enjoyed the restroom. I feel better than usual?”

“…I didn’t mean to ask that much, but anyway, that’s good to hear.”

Leeha responded cheerfully but then appeared slightly embarrassed. It was the day of her surgery after two days in the hospital. He had several consultations, but ‘Doctor Heinrich’ was not an easy person to deal with.

“Paralysis of the lower limbs due to spinal injury… It’s quite an interesting case, but I’m not sure if it’s a patient worth canceling three conferences for and delaying hospital exchanges. You don’t seem like an offspring of a party official. Why Ram Peng…”

His tone was laden with the nuance of ‘why do I have to endure so much pressure for someone like you?’

Leeha couldn’t have misunderstood.

“Ram Peng must be someone high up, right?”

He had a rough idea but couldn’t pinpoint it exactly. Ram Hwayeon hardly visited Leeha in the hospital, except on the day he was admitted. Even Ram Hwajung, who could have provided information, seemed bored of just sitting in the hospital room, often going around Hong Kong with Kijung and Bobae.

Not only Leeha, but Kijung and Bobae were also quite startled.

The ‘Ice Witch’, who seemed like she would only stare at Leeha’s face all day, acting as a tour guide?!

Even doing it so enthusiastically – according to Kijung – since the day after admission until today, the day of the surgery, was unbelievable. So, since admission, only Shin Nara and Leeha have been consistently in the hospital room. Strictly speaking, ‘nurses’ should be included as well. In other words, there was no environment for any particular event to occur. Nurses and doctors were constantly coming in and out, making it difficult to even have a proper conversation.

“Eh? You don’t know Ram Peng? Then how did you end up here-”

“Uh… it’s kind of a long story.”

Heinrich looked baffled when Leeha asked about Ram Peng.

‘I thought you were under the patronage of Ram Peng considering the VIP single room, special management, and even canceling my support, but…

Heinrich shook his head. There was no benefit in getting deeply involved with Ram Long Group’s affairs. The pay was expected, and Ram Peng was the one providing perfect support in almost every field he wanted to research.

He came to Hong Kong under such promises and contracts, and all those contractual terms were strictly adhered to until he took charge of Leeha.

“Well then. Let’s start in two hours.”

“Understood.”


It was 11 AM; in two hours, it would be 1 PM. It was around lunchtime, but Leeha wasn’t hungry.

“Are you really not going to contact your family? It’ll be roaming…”

“Hehe, I was going to, but then seeing Nara-ssi, I changed my mind.”

“Me? I?”

Nara’s motion to hand over the smartphone to Leeha stopped.

She changed her mind because of her? What did that mean?

Before Nara could fully grasp the meaning, Leeha provided her own explanation.

“Surprise! After experiencing a surprise from you, Nara-ssi, I really got excited. I need to recover from surgery here before I go back to Korea. I don’t want my mom to faint from shock.”

“…You meant that because of me?”

“Yes! Uh, it might be a bit weird to say this to you, Nara-ssi, but I kind of understand how Petyr felt. Just thinking about it makes my heart race-”

“Oh my…”

Shin Nara shook her head.

She felt that Leeha was reliable at times and not so much at others.

“By the way, Nara-ssi, when are you going back to Korea?”

“I don’t know. Originally, I planned to go shopping with Leeha-ssi, visit Macau to try egg tarts, and go to famous dim sum places.”

“Ah, really? I should have told you earlier. Sorry-”

“No, no, you don’t need to worry about it. I came here secretly, so it’s not something for Leeha-ssi to be concerned about.”

Nara quickly waved her hands dismissively and smiled. Amidst the pleasant atmosphere and conversation, time flew quickly. As the surgery approached, Ram Hwajung, Kijung, and Bobae also returned to the hospital. As nurses began to busily move Leeha to the operating table, the atmosphere in the room became tense.

“Hyung, don’t be too nervous. You got this, right?”

“How can I be nervous under anesthesia? I won’t even be able to feel it.”

“Oh, that’s so like you, Leeha-ssi”, Bobae remarked, although Leeha’s words made Kijung burst into laughter.

Kijung’s laughter eased Leeha’s expression a bit, which was tense due to the atmosphere. Leeha knew the atmosphere was tense. It was impossible not to feel nervous in such a situation. In times like these, ‘jokes’ were necessary. With the mood slightly lightened, the gurney finally moved. Along with the nurses, Kijung, Bobae, and Nara also followed Leeha. At the door of the hospital room, a familiar redhead appeared.

“Ha Leeha! Ready?”

“What am I supposed to prepare? The doctor will take care of everything.”

“Seeing how you talk, you seem fine.”

“Ah, right, Ram Hwayeon-ssi!”

“Hm?”

“I wanted to properly thank you before.”

“…Forget it. We agreed to do that after the surgery.”

Ram Hwayeon remembered. What Leeha meant by saying thank you involved a specific action.

However, Leeha’s nod was somewhat irritating to her.

“And, one more thing. I was too scared to ask Doctor Heinrich properly.”

“What is it?”

Rattle, rattle.

Even from the gurney, Leeha’s voice didn’t tremble as she asked Ram Hwayeon.

“Can I play Middle Earth right after the surgery?”

“What, what?”

Ram Hwayeon paused for a moment, Shin Nara choked, and the question made Bobae and Kijung sigh.

(To be continued…)
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 Ram Hwayeon hastily followed Leeha’s gurney again and showed an exasperated expression.

“Even if the surgery goes smoothly, it’s a major operation that will take at least 5 hours, and all you’re asking is-”

“Well, it’s possible! I have a quest I need to do, and the deadline is-”

“Enough, enough! Even during rehabilitation, you can play Middle Earth, so stop thinking about useless things-”

The door to the operating room opened. A place where no one else, including Ram Hwayeon, could enter, and where Leeha had to endure alone.

“Stay strong.”

“You got this.”

As Leeha’s gurney passed through the door, both Ram Hwayeon and Shin Nara said the same thing simultaneously, which couldn’t have been a coincidence. Bobae firmly held Kijung’s hand. Leeha’s surgery had begun.

***

“Ram Hwajung-ssi? Standing there won’t make the surgery end faster. Why don’t you sit down?”

Kijung pointed to an empty chair, but Ram Hwajung just glanced at him and didn’t sit. In the chairs in front of the operating room, Kijung, Bobae, and Shin Nara were sitting in a row, but Ram Hwajung remained standing. She wasn’t just standing still; she was pacing in small circles in front of the operating room door.

“It’s supposed to take about five hours, right?”

“Yes. That’s what Ram Hwayeon-ssi said.”

“About four hours have passed now… Maybe it could end earlier, or something? Isn’t it almost over? I wish they would at least let us know the progress…”

Bobae bit her lip, voicing her worries, but neither Nara nor Kijung could provide an answer. The anxiety in Bobae’s mumbling was shared by everyone present. Even the world’s best doctors and medical facilities could make mistakes in surgery. Though the likelihood of a problem was extremely low, such ominous thoughts inevitably arose while waiting.

“I know she can tell.”

“Sorry?”

Ram Hwajung, who hadn’t spoken a word for four hours, finally spoke. Due to being dragged around by Ram Hwajung in recent days, Kijung and Bobae were somewhat familiar with her way of speaking.

“How can Ram Hwayeon-ssi know?”

“Just ask Peng hyung.”


“Hmm, it’s a good idea, but ultimately we still have to wait, so maybe it’s better to wait quietly-”

“I want to ask.”

Ignoring Kijung’s words, Ram Hwajung immediately turned and began to walk away. Kijung and Bobae considered stopping her but eventually let her go. They didn’t want to cause a commotion in front of the operating room, and it wasn’t like Ram Hwajung would listen if they called her.

“Really can’t figure her out, right, Bobae-ssi?”

“Exactly. I was so surprised when she suddenly got excited and bought us ice cream and jerky, or when she brought us luxury gifts as presents.”

“I thought we got close then, but maybe it was just my mistake.”

“Me too.”

Unaware of Kijung and Bobae’s complaints, Ram Hwajung quickly strode down the corridor. At that moment, the two people Ram Hwajung was looking for, Ram Hwayeon and Ram Peng, were drinking tea in the ‘Chairman’s Office.’

***

“Aren’t you going to check? You seem to care so much about that person.”

“Who cares about whom.”

“Right, right. I know you got quite a bit of help from that person in the ‘new project’, but…”

“It’s Middle Earth.”

Ram Hwayeon sipped her coffee, while Ram Peng’s eyes sparkled from across the cup.

The new business venture Ram Hwayeon advocated for Ram Long Group, Middle Earth, had indeed received some help from Leeha, and thanks to that, Ram Hwayeon’s stock within the group had risen.

However, ram Peng wasn’t referring to that. Just because Leeha had helped stabilize a new revenue stream in their new business venture, it didn’t make her a person Ram Hwayeon would ‘ardently care for’.

In essence, ram Peng was implying something more, and Ram Hwayeon, fully aware of this, feigned ignorance.

“Right, Middle Earth. Yes. Whether it’s Middle Earth or whatever. You’ll need my push quite a lot in the future.”

“And how would your push change anything?”

“Convince Father – I mean, the Chairman, all by yourself? Hwajung’s feeble attempts won’t be any help. If you’re really thinking what I think you are… you’ll definitely need my help.”


If Ram Hwayeon indeed thought of Leeha as ‘special’. If she considered something beyond mere affection for Leeha?

Leeha is Korean, not someone from politics or business. Convincing Ram Long Group’s chairman to place such a person beside Ram Hwayeon wouldn’t be easy. Ram Peng pointed this out, causing Ram Hwayeon’s brow to furrow slightly.

“Stop talking nonsense and take care of your own business. I hear the pharmaceutical sector in the Netherlands is making significant inroads. I heard our market share has dropped noticeably. Can’t even defend properly, let alone attack – would Father even appreciate such a person?”

“…I’ve taken care of it already.”

“I know. I’m talking about the ‘methods’ you’ve used. Stupid fool.”

“What, what? How would you know-”

Ram Hwayeon’s voice rose, and Ram Peng was taken aback. Before he could make any excuses, Ram Hwayeon spoke up.

“Even if it’s for the group, using force is unacceptable. We’re businessmen. Even if we don’t limit our means, using illegal methods is the worst. You’re not some gangster-”

“But, I had no choice! What do you know? Who ruined three meetings that even involved party officials! How dare they do such things on our land!”

“Our land? Foolish boy. We’re already a global group! They are too! Not just simple threats, but actual violence… Do you think they’ll just sit back? There are those who flee from violence and those who meet violence with violence.”

“Hmph, what can those people possibly do?”

“Be careful, Peng. I called it the ‘pharmaceutical sector’ for a reason.”

“For that reason?”

“They have government backing. They’re not just any company. They won’t back down easily.”

Ram Hwayeon’s heavy words made Ram Peng’s mouth clench shut. He swallowed dryly. It had only been a week since he ‘sent a message’ to the Dutch pharmaceutical sector. The fact that Ram Hwayeon already knew about it was surprising enough, but did she also know information that even Ram Peng himself hadn’t fully grasped?

“But, it’s fine! I’m only here, in our hospital and the adjacent hotel! What can those guys do, unless they want to start a war?”

“Is it all over if you just stay careful?”

“…Yes, I know! I’m responsible for you and Hwajung here too. Don’t worry. I’ll make sure our family is safe from any harm. At least they can’t get to me. This hospital is… my fortress.”

Ram Peng spread his arms confidently. Ram Hwayeon didn’t respond further.

Although she had given him various information and hints, it couldn’t be considered as fully repaying her ‘debt’. Both Ram Hwayeon and Ram Peng knew this.


Bang!

The door to the chairman’s office was flung open at that moment. Ram Peng, still startled by Ram Hwayeon’s recent words, was embarrassed by his reaction. He looked at his watch and stood up.

“Ahem. It’s that time already? Let’s go, sister. I’ll ask Dr. Heinrich myself.”

The three of them once again navigated the hospital’s complex structure, heading toward Leeha’s operating room. In the meantime, whether they were aides or bodyguards, large figures trailed behind the Ram siblings

***

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi!”

“Ah, master Kay. Ha Leeha hasn’t come out yet, I guess?”

Seeing the large group suddenly appear at the operating room, Kijung was startled. However, Ram Hwayeon was calm.

“Ram Hwajung-ssi just came to ask-”

“Peng hyung. Quickly.”

Ram Hwajung, emerging from behind the figures, suddenly grabbed Ram Peng’s hand. He was the slowest to act among those present.

“Alright, alright. I’ll go in and ask, just wait-”

Ziiing…

Just as Ram Peng was about to walk forward, the door of the operating room opened.

“What are you all doing here, making such a commotion?”

Dr. Heinrich, looking exhausted, frowned as he surveyed the crowd. Everyone stared at him in a daze. It was somewhat unusual for a surgeon to emerge from a major operation and speak like this, but at least he didn’t mention anything specific about the results. No news is often good news.

“Dr. Heinrich, how did the surgery go?”

“Don’t worry about the report, I’ll take care of it. Oh, and the patient’s guardians.”

“Yes, yes?”

“When the anesthesia wears off, you’ll need to massage the patient’s legs diligently. It might take some time for the sensation to return.”

For the first time, a smile appeared on Dr. Heinrich’s lips. He gave a thumbs up.

“The surgery was successful.”

“Yes! That’s great!”

“Really? So now Leeha-ssi will-”

Bobae clapped her hands in joy. Kijung stood up abruptly but then had to sit back down, his legs too weak to stand. Shin Nara quietly covered her mouth at the side. Tears streamed down her face, hidden by her hand. Ram Hwayeon, seeing this, couldn’t feel annoyed. Her vision was already blurred with tears.

“Oppa, massage.”

Moments later, when Leeha, still under anesthesia, was brought out on the gurney and Ram Hwajung began massaging his toes, everyone was finally able to laugh.

***

Leeha’s lower body was moving again.

Kijung and Ram Hwajung held hands tightly, trying to calm their racing hearts. To anyone looking, they resembled a close-knit older hyung and younger sister, sharing the same expression and posture. Beside them, Ram Hwayeon stood with her arms crossed. The three of them focused on the same sight – people beyond the transparent window.

Among them, a man fidgeting between the long parallel bars caught their attention. The man, struggling to rise from a wheelchair and putting all his strength into his arms, was, of course, Leeha.

“Do you feel it? It’s your first time, so don’t push yourself too hard.”

“Push? If it’s this kind of effort, I can do it all year long.”

It had been three days since the surgery. Leeha, still unable to stand and dripping with sweat, was smiling.

He remembered the past three days. Though he hadn’t started rehabilitation like now, he could enjoy the results of the successful surgery even while lying in bed.

The feeling of wiggling toes, the sensation of tightening muscles in his calves and thighs, and above all, the joy of feeling the natural urge to urinate and being able to do so on his own, not just fiddling with a device! Leeha couldn’t count how many times he had cried upon finally experiencing these once taken-for-granted sensations. And it wasn’t just Leeha; many people who visited his hospital room felt the same way. Shin Nara, who returned to Korea the day before, remembered her time in Hong Kong as nothing but tears. Bobae, laden with gifts from Ram Hwajung, felt the same.

(To be continued…)
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 “Hmmm!”

“Right. Slowly, slowly. If you feel like you’re going to fall, I’ll catch you, so put strength into your legs without fear.”

The rehabilitation nurse encouraged Leeha. Afraid? At this moment, Leeha would probably laugh even if he fell and got a nosebleed. Every attempt to stand sent tingling sensations through his lower back. The feeling of atrophied muscles and nerve cells awakening again. Although this unfamiliar sensation brought pain, Leeha did not avoid it.

“Grrr!”

“That’s right! Good!”

Finally, holding onto the parallel bars, Leeha stood on his own two legs without anyone’s help.

He wobbled like he was dancing a silly dance for about 30 seconds before collapsing back into the wheelchair, but his eyes were sparkling with excitement.

“Today, let’s aim for ten times like this and call it a day.”

“Ten times?”

“If it’s too much for you-”

“Can’t we do it for 10 hours? No, I want to continue until bedtime. Will you stay and watch over me?”

“What?”

The rehabilitation nurse looked astonished.

Outside the glass, unaware of the conversation inside the rehab room, people were struggling to hold back their tears again.

“Ahem, um, ahem! Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

Kijung, his voice nearly breaking, cleared his throat and spoke up.

He had cried every day since the surgery to the point where he thought he had no more tears left, but now his eyes were brimming with tears again.

“What? Staring at me like that won’t get you anything.”

“Who’s asking for anything?! Cough, cough. That… in Middle Earth, next time.”

“Huh?”


Ram Hwayeon tilted her head in confusion.

Suddenly Middle Earth? What was he trying to say?

Ram Hwajung, who had been staring at Leeha as if he were the only person in the world, also turned her gaze to Kijung.

Kijung felt awkward under their gaze.

Especially since what he was about to say felt so insignificant compared to what they had done for him and Leeha.

“In Middle Earth, well, with Ram Hwajung-ssi there, it might not be necessary but-”

“Spit it out, what do you want to say?”

“I will be… Ram Hwayeon-ssi’s shield, at least once.”

Kijung spoke earnestly. What could he offer in reality to repay Ram Hwayeon? In recent days, Kijung had thought about it coldly and came to a conclusion.

‘Nothing.’

There was nothing he could offer to someone who already had everything – not money, not gifts. The only thing Kijung could offer was unique to him. Some might say, is that a repayment in a mere game? But at least to Ram Hwayeon who heard these words, it wasn’t a small gesture.

“Truly Leeha’s hyung. I won’t refuse such a repayment. It would have been better with the power of Byulcho, but Master Kay, you alone are enough.”

She smiled faintly and nodded. Ram Hwajung also nodded and added.

“Shield-ajussi. You’re useful.”

“Shield, I get it, but I’m not an ajussi, Ram Hwajung-ssi. And saying I’m useful like I’m a tool-”

Kijung felt awkward and tried to counter her words, but she had already turned her head back to Leeha.

“Alright, this time, let’s aim for one minute. Grrrrr!”

Leeha, who had asked if he could play Middle Earth after surgery, now found the game far from his thoughts.

His focus was on the real effort to restore his physical body. Besides the rehab, everything else seemed trivial.

***


It was exactly one week since Leeha arrived in Hong Kong. In the world of Middle Earth, more than 35 days had passed.

“Commander! It seems they’re starting to come in now. The pack of three-headed dire wolves are appearing!”

“Understood. As expected from the intel. Alright, everyone, get into formation! Tankers of each division, please come forward! I’ll lead the overall attack, but each division leader will command their own battle!”

The commander of the joint attack, holding a shield, shouted as he received the report from a ranger.

The group of over a hundred people following him started to move in unison, cheering and demonstrating impeccable coordination.

As the attacking members moved, something like charcoal dust rose from the ground. The eerie atmosphere intensified.

“Is this time’s terrain quite plausible?”

“Of course, it should be a hit, right? The fourth cleared base was an A-grade, and the fifth was an A+ achievement, wasn’t it?”

Amidst the tension, what everyone still coveted was the clear reward.

Since the official opening of the new continent, what all players actively sought were these lands.

『Common Quest: When you beat the bushes, snakes Will Emerge』

Objective: Confirm the Demon Bases (5/7) Condition for Failure: Failure to confirm Demon Bases within 100 days (Remaining Time: 65 days)

The Demon Bases, crucial for completing the common quest!

With the revelation that the recently cleared fifth base granted an A+ grade achievement, the topic became even hotter.

“What about the third one?”

“Well, I don’t know. Some guild controlled it and there was no information about it. Anyway, the fourth base was the third location in the quest, and the fifth base was the fourth location in the quest… Considering the pattern, this one can’t be less than A+ grade. It’s probably the fifth or sixth location in quest terms.”

The sequence in which players cleared the Demon Bases differed from the actual number of bases, so they had to be referred to differently.

The place they were discussing,

The third cleared location was where Leeha achieved his feat, which was the fifth land covered in demonic energy in the quest.

“Make sure you’re fully buffed, and we’ll enter in 3 minutes! We’ve been overshadowed since the first base clearance, but this time it will be different. Our Rush guild will clear the sixth base!”


Oooooooh———–!

The commander of the joint attack and the guild master of Rush guild. Ron, who had once taken on the role of a commander in a national battle, raised his weapon and shouted.

The large guilds with continental influence were still flexing their might in the new continent.

The main attack force of four groups, a total of 100 members.

Including the 15 backup members, a total of 115 members had, as Ron said, completed all preparations within 3 minutes.

In the new continent, such a number of players indicated that apart from a very special few, they were skilled in raids and group hunts.

“Let’s RUSH!”

As Ron shouted the guild’s motto, 114 attack members roared back and followed him.

The three-headed wolves and four-winged crows, intimidated by the number of players, hesitated to attack rashly, maintaining distance. However, once they started their charge, the true nature of the monsters couldn’t be hidden.

“Grrrrrr!”

“Caw, caw!”

The monsters attacked vigorously, but the attack force was no less capable.

Especially with their overwhelming numbers, they skillfully dealt with the pack of triple-headed dire wolves.

Just as they were about to tackle another group of monsters, the name of a user in the party window turned to ash.

“What? Who died?”

“Healers, stay sharp! Someone’s already down within 10 minutes of entry!”

“Wait a minute. Something’s weird. They were at full HP just a second ago?”

“It’s not our healers’ fault! The one who just died is a DPS! Tankers, manage aggro properly!”

A murmur arose among the attack members.

Although Ron briefly wore a serious expression, he quickly exercised his leadership to mediate the rising tension among his members.

Such incidents were common in difficult and thrilling raids, where excitement and tension often ran high.

“Let’s start aga-”

Thud.

Before Ron could finish his sentence, another user next to him collapsed.

The confused attack members were initially unable to grasp the situation. It was only after the user’s body turned ashen that they realized the gravity of the situation.

“What? Dead-”

“Assassin, it’s a stealth mob! Form a defensive formation for DPS! Cast ‘Detect’!”

A mage quickly cast a spell to reveal any invisible entities, shouting out his thoughts. His reasoning was sound: if someone suddenly dies without any sign of an attack, the only plausible explanation is an ‘invisible assassin’.

Though the bodies of Rush guild members were already forming a defensive formation, their minds were in disarray.

“Invisible attack without breaking the invisibility? Is there such a magic?”

Soon after, ‘Detect’ spells were cast all around, and the players were shocked by what they found.

“There’s nothing detected-”

The heads of the mages who had cast ‘Detect’ began to explode one by one.

Pop, pop, pop-!

The sound, akin to a watermelon being smashed, continued incessantly. Ron’s face turned ashen in an instant.

“Raise the shields! Raise the shields! Form a Testudo formation!”

What was happening was unclear! But it was definitely dangerous!

Ron shouted the name of an ancient Roman military formation. Even though it was hard to comprehend with their minds, their bodies reacted – a characteristic of skilled players.

The members of Rush guild quickly formed the Testudo formation, enclosing the DPS members within.

The tightly formed defensive formation didn’t leave even a slight gap for attack.

All members of the attack force, unable to even swallow their saliva, braced for an unknown attack. However, after forming the Testudo, the attack ceased.

“…There’s no response.”

“What was that, Guild Master?”

“…I have no idea.”

It had been 5 minutes since the death of the mage who used ‘Detect’, but to Ron and the members of Rush, it felt like more than an hour in hell.

“What the hell was that…? Was it really an attack?”

Ron looked around persistently, his confusion evident. The charred ground showed no significant signs.

Monsters were slowly approaching from a distance, but the Testudo formation, while perfect for all-around defense, wasn’t an attacking formation. Staying like this would mean falling prey to the monsters. Moreover, the monsters that appeared this time were not the predatory type like the triple-headed dire wolves. They resembled trolls from the European continent but were different in color and physique, and even fully armed.

“Armored High-Trolls? Must be at least level 270.”

No unidentified attacks occurred after forming the Testudo.

Was it a response to the formation, or had some kind of bug phenomenon ended?

Ron eventually lowered his shield.

“Monsters resembling Armored High-Trolls approaching from all sides! Prepare your formations, each atta-”

He couldn’t finish his sentence.

The ashen body of Ron, with the top of his neck missing, collapsed to the ground.

“Commander?!”

“Guild Master, the Guild Master has fallen-”

The shock among the players was natural. The sudden panic was enough to break the Testudo formation.

And then, ‘unknown attacks’ poured down like rain through the gaps between the shields.

Members of RUSH, who had experienced national battles and even adult-class white dragon raids, couldn’t maintain their sanity.

Panic compounded with panic, chaos with chaos, the formation began to completely collapse.

“Whoa, no way!”

“Retreat! Everyone retreat!”

As players kept falling one by one, the approach of the Armored High-Trolls didn’t cease.

“Can’t-escape!”

A monster smaller than the Armored High-Trolls.

A creature resembling a goblin or kobold rushed in, tearing something apart.

Amidst the confusion, no player heard the ripping sound, but all members of Rush guild had to scream. A purple barrier was forming around them.

(Continued…)
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 “Go, go, go, space – the space is locked!”

“Crazy, damn it?! The monster is controlling the space-”

Poof, amidst this chaos, someone’s head flew off.

Armored High-Trolls began to charge with a ferocious cry. Having lost their commander, and in the face of relentless ‘one-hit attacks’ from an unidentified source, the guild members of Rush couldn’t possibly engage in proper combat.

“…Recording a video at least…”

Poof…!

It took less than 15 minutes for the entire elite force of Rush, a large guild led by Fibiel that had previously conquered the first Demon King’s stronghold, to be annihilated.

Kijung was continuously receiving information about Middle Earth through Tale. Therefore, he was well aware of this incident, which had stirred the entire Middle Earth community and achieved 10 million views on YouTube in just two days.

Leeha lying in bed, and Kijung holding a tablet.

Both were intently focused on the screen as if being drawn into it.

The video quality was somewhat poor, and many users employed screenshots and video recording prevention items, making it difficult to discern the content clearly.

-Carut- Human- Carruruk?! Run-like-go!

-Go, go, go, space – the space is locked!

-The monster is controlling the space-

However, the key scenes of Rush guild members dying due to the rampaging monsters and unidentified attacks were clearly captured, sufficiently shocking the viewers.

The video itself was less than 6 minutes long, but its implications were far from trivial.

High-level users capable of forming an expedition to the new continent, that too 100 members from the same guild, perfectly synchronized in team play from countless raids, were completely wiped out.

Despite watching it three times, the two hadn’t spoken a single word.

Leeha, in his own way, and Kijung, in his own way, seemed to understand something from the video.

“…Hyung. You haven’t logged into Middle Earth recently, have you?”


“What?”

“No, of course not. It couldn’t be you.”

“You think I did this?”

“It resembles your attack style. In the video, they seem to think it’s an invisible assassin… but in such a case, it rather looks more like long-range sniping.”

Kijung’s eyes sparkled. He knew better, having seen Leeha’s feats up close. The victims die without even being able to discern the attacker’s location? And that too, with a ‘regular attack’ without any trace of mana waves?

“If not hyung, then Luger or Kidd-”

“They have no reason to do this. They would also need to complete the common quest. Luger may be crazy, but he’s not insane enough to wage war on Rush just to complete it himself.”

“Then who on earth…

Kijung looked puzzled, but Leeha’s expression was darker.

It’s not him. Not Kidd. Not Luger.

And a being that has a motive to kill users trying to subdue the Demon King’s stronghold.

What could that be?

All clues pointed to only one possibility.

‘This is… the doing of the “Arcane Sniper”. Now I understand why Luger was targeted.’

Due to the screams and noise in the video, it’s hard to hear, but the ‘gunshots’ are almost inaudible.

How many seconds after a user is hit by Arcane Sniper does the sound occur? The gap between the event and the sound was so large that it was natural not to notice the gunshots.

In other words, the gunshot sound occurs at least 6 seconds after being hit, and Leeha knew very well what this time gap implied.

As Leeha was lost in shock, Kijung, who had been watching the video for a while, lay back and chuckled self-deprecatingly.

“Kick. Should I be thankful to you?”

“What are you talking about?”


“If you hadn’t brought me to Hong Kong, where would I be?”

“True… Instead of Rush, it would have been Byulcho who got destroyed. You wouldn’t ignore a quest to subdue the Demon King’s stronghold.”

“Right. Well, I can log into Middle Earth even from here… but then, I should also thank Chiyou. Lately, I’ve heard from Tale hyung that the guild situation isn’t good.”

“Why Chiyou?”

“Why? Because of ‘Yamato’. Chiyou has been tormenting them for revenge, right? Sending Bobae early was also to ask her to sort things out. Especially, our lower to mid-level guild members are even considering leaving the guild…”

Kijung spoke in a somewhat light-hearted manner, but the situation seemed dire.

Unlike the ‘Shinobigumi’, which simply dealt with information, the guild ‘Yamato’ comprised entirely of renowned outsiders. Their combat power far surpassed that of the average members of the Byulcho guild. Only the top users in Byulcho could possibly stand a chance against them.

‘When and how did they manage to recruit such people?’

Leeha pondered seriously about them once again, whom he hadn’t given much thought to before. With Chiyou’s overwhelming information capabilities, it wouldn’t have been difficult to figure out what they needed. Could she have lured them into the guild with the promise of giving them what they wanted?

Some of them might have joined for material gains, and others simply because they found pleasure in playing the role of a villain.

‘Really, this Middle Earth is fascinating. Large corporations are considering it for new business ventures, and some are even trying to establish power structures. I guess that makes sense. If it weren’t for Middle Earth, I wouldn’t have been able to fix my leg. So then… what about Chiyou?’

What could be Chiyou’s reason for playing the game? She doesn’t seem to be aiming for profit, nor does she appear to be trying to achieve something specific. She’s not even striving to be the strongest in the game.

Leeha shook his head. At least with the information he currently had, he couldn’t fathom her intentions.

Then, glancing at Kijung who was lying beside him, he spoke.

“Kijung, just go back to Korea tomorrow.”

“What? Why suddenly, hyung?”

“It’s already been 9 days since you came to Hong Kong. You don’t need to stay here anymore. Go back.”

“Okay, okay. Are you saying this because I just mentioned the guild? Of course, I should stay while you’re in Hong Kong. And I can play Middle Earth from here too.”

Though he could, Kijung hadn’t played even once.

It was partly due to the internal situation of the game, especially Chiyou’s 『Yamato』, but more so because he had been following Leeha around, helping with his rehabilitation.


In effect, Kijung hadn’t been able to play because of Leeha, and Leeha, knowing this, felt increasingly guilty.

“Mom keeps asking when you’ll come. Go and see her. Check if everything is alright with her. And look at this.”

Leeha comforted and reassured Kijung, then hurriedly got off the bed.

Kijung, still not fully adjusted, was startled and tried to support Leeha, but Leeha brushed his hand away.

“I can stand on my own now – there’s no need for you, is there? You’ve worked hard until now, so go back soon.”

Leeha stood on his own feet beside the bed.

His legs were shaky and unstable, but he showed incredible recovery.

Given that he had focused solely on rehabilitation to the amazement of the specialized doctors and nurses, this was perhaps to be expected.

“Can I really go?”

Seeing his condition, Kijung had no choice but to agree.

He knew that once Leeha became stubborn, he wouldn’t easily back down, and realistically, it was necessary for Kijung to log into Middle Earth as soon as possible for the management of the Byulcho guild.

“Yes, go ahead. Quickly pack your bags at the lodge. Leave tonight if you can.”

“Alright.”

Kijung sprang to his feet.

Leeha then sat back on the bed, smiling at Kijung.

“… But aren’t you too unbothered about this? Shouldn’t you be saying, ‘I’ll stay’, at times like this?”

“Kick, no thanks? I’m going. Anyway, thanks, hyung. Because of you, I got to visit Hong Kong like this. I had a great time at the Ram Long Group’s residence, and I’ll never forget shopping with Ram Hwajung-ssi. Oh! Should I take the gift Ram Hwajung-ssi gave you to take care of for hyung to Korea?”

Kijung suddenly remembered and spoke hastily.

Leeha nodded proudly.

“Just don’t keep it for yourself.”

“It doesn’t fit me, so I can’t wear it anyway. Alright, I’ll get ready then!”

The two cousins joked and laughed until the end. Kijung hurried back to his lodge to prepare for his return to Korea.

From his actions, Leeha could guess how serious the situation must be for the Byulcho guild in Middle Earth.

‘There are only 55 days left for the common quest… So my World Tree quest would be around 110 days now.’

Leeha wanted to log into Middle Earth, but he knew rehabilitation was more urgent, so he spent the day feeling impatient.

That evening, Kijung left for Korea. When Leeha woke up after completing his rehabilitation, it was exactly ten days since he had arrived in Hong Kong.

Leeha’s daily routine was always the same. He would start with a hearty breakfast – which he didn’t know was prepared as a hotel-style breakfast on Ram Hwayeon’s orders, rather than the typical hospital food – followed by a simple neurological examination, and then immediately begin rehabilitation.

This was followed by lunch, more rehabilitation, dinner, and then some light lower body stretching before bed.

This mechanical repetition of daily life could have been boring, but Leeha didn’t feel it that way at all.

“Huff, huff.”

“Hold my hand.”

“No, huff, it’s okay. Holding Ram Hwajung-ssi’s hand won’t stabilize me. If I fall, we both might get hurt more.”

Was she offering her hand in case Leeha fell?

It was unlikely that Ram Hwajung, who was just a bit taller than half of Leeha’s height, believed she could support him if he fell.

Although Ram Hwajung’s offer to hold hands might have had a meaning beyond support, Leeha, focusing all his attention on his lower body, couldn’t think of that.

“I’m bored.”

After lunchtime and during the afternoon rehabilitation, Ram Hwajung, who had been following Leeha around, never left his side, especially after Bobae and Nara left and even after Kijung, who looked somewhat gloomy for some reason, departed.

Leeha felt a bittersweet sensation looking at Ram Hwajung.

‘Even as the youngest daughter of a top-ranking chaebol group… No, perhaps because of that, she might not have many people who genuinely care about her.’

Although she was part of the Hwahong guild, Ram Hwajung usually played solo unless specifically instructed by Ram Hwayeon.

Leeha suddenly thought that maybe her nickname, the Ice Witch, was not because of her cold personality, but rather because she was lonely, not knowing how to communicate with others due to a lack of companionship.

‘In the hospital, the bodyguards are mostly not around, usually just near Ram Fang.’

Ram Hwayeon and Jachung were always busy with work, and bodyguards were not allowed to accompany them in the hospital to maintain the atmosphere.

This meant the hospital had all the elements to make Ram Hwajung feel bored.

“Shall we go for a walk?”

At Leeha’s suggestion, Ram Hwajung’s eyes widened in excitement.

“Yeah!”

Leeha smiled warmly, realizing that despite being the Ice Witch and a top 10 ranked player in Middle Earth, in reality, she was just a kid.

Unable to walk for more than 10 minutes, Leeha sat in a wheelchair.

And behind that wheelchair stood Ram Hwajung.

“I can do it…”

“I want to.”

Leeha, who was adept at maneuvering the wheelchair himself, had to relent and hand over control to Ram Hwajung, who insisted on pushing it herself.

From a distance, as Leeha and Ram Hwajung were of similar height while he was seated, it appeared as though Leeha was moving in a motorized wheelchair by himself.

After navigating the maze-like hospital structure, Ram Hwajung led Leeha to a park near the hospital’s back entrance.

The atmosphere was quite different from the grand front entrance that faced the main road.

The park was closer to a well-maintained area with green grass and even a fountain. Looking at the landscaped park that could well be called a walking path, Leeha was impressed.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Whether something good or bad happened can’t be determined unless you see the end result.

“What bad luck!”

The farmer replies, “Maybe.”

The next day, the horse returns with several wild horses, and the villagers exclaim, “What good luck!”

Again, the farmer says, “Maybe.”

Later, the farmer’s son breaks his leg while trying to tame one of the wild horses.

“What bad luck!” say the villagers. The farmer’s response?

“Maybe.”

Finally, the army comes to the village to draft young men for war but leaves the farmer’s son behind due to his broken leg.

“What good luck!” cheer the villagers. The farmer simply says, “Maybe.”
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 ‘Even the large hospitals in our country are all grey due to the parking lots…’

It was surprising to find such a luxurious garden in Hong Kong, where land was even more expensive than in Korea.

Ram Hwajung, unaware of what astonished Leeha, was smiling for the first time in a while.

“Hurry up and get well, so we can go shopping.”

“Now that you mention it, Ram Hwajung-ssi, you like shopping, don’t you?”

Leeha teased.

Ram Hwajung lowered her head in embarrassment.

Leeha was already aware of this fact, having been told by Kijung and Bobae.

‘The idea of buying luxury clothes, bags, and shoes as if playing with dolls was a bit absurd.’

Was it enjoyable for her to dress up someone else?

Ram Hwajung had been very enthusiastic about trying different outfits on Kijung and Bobae. Leeha laughed, imagining this scene.

“Oh, I’ll buy something for you next time, oppa.”

“Thank you. But neither Bobae nor I are that poor. We might not be able to buy luxury goods like water, but-”

“I want to buy it for you.”

“Okay, then. Ram Hwajung-ssi can buy something for me, and I’ll buy something suitable for Ram Hwajunj-ssi. Okay?”

Suddenly, the wheelchair stopped abruptly.

Leeha turned his head, wondering what was wrong. Ram Hwajung’s gaze was fixed on his face as if frozen.

“Why, what’s wrong?”

Was it inappropriate to offer to buy something for a member of a global chaebol family? Was that considered rude?

“… It’s the first time someone said that.”


“What? Said what?”

“Hehe. As expected, oppa.”

She looked directly at Leeha and smiled.

Her smile, revealing her pearly white teeth, appeared almost fairy-like to Leeha.

For Ram Hwajung, it was a fresh shock and quite moving.

The people around her, who always judged by the amount of money, had never given Ram Hwajung any special gifts. Either they thought she could buy whatever she wanted, or they were afraid of being ridiculed for giving something mediocre.

For Ram Hwayeon, who had never received gifts from anyone outside her family, Leeha’s words deeply resonated.

“I’d like that.”

Leeha was momentarily lost in Ram Hwayeon’s smile and hardly heard her response.

As Leeha continued to stare at her, dazed, Ram Hwayeon finally seemed to come back to her senses and lowered her head again, her ears turning red.

“Ahem! Let’s continue our walk.”

Leeha awkwardly moved the wheelchair.

Ram Hwajung no longer pushed it from behind. The broad, well-maintained walkway was spacious enough for them to go side by side.

‘Anyway, even though she’s young, isn’t it normal to think she’s beautiful – no, it’s pure innocence or something like that – it’s not weird at all -’

Leeha, slightly embarrassed by having been captivated by Ram Hwayeon’s smile, was busily rationalizing it in his mind.

Therefore, he didn’t pay much attention to the suspicious group approaching from the other end of the walkway.

“Oppa, people.”

“-So that’s not really- Huh? What?”

Leeha snapped back to reality only when Ram Hwayeon called him.

Five men were walking towards them, side by side, leaving no room to pass.


‘What’s this? Foreigners?’

Though wearing various clothes, all five men were blond and blue-eyed foreigners.

Encountering foreigners wasn’t unusual in the international city of Hong Kong.

But where were they now?

‘They don’t seem to be patients… Why are these bulky guys blocking the path like that – and in a line? What’s going on…’

It was strange.

Leeha gradually slowed down the wheelchair. Ram Hwayeon also slowed her steps.

Leeha tried not to pay attention to them, thinking they would move aside once they got closer. That’s when he saw it.

The item uniformly plugged into their ears.

‘In-ear devices?!’

The in-ear communicators typically used by bodyguards were inserted in their ears. The moment Leeha noticed this, the expressions of the five foreigners changed.

The situation was unclear, but the atmosphere was unmistakably threatening.

“Ram Hwajung-ssi, run!”

“They noticed us, catch them!”

“Ah-…!”

It was only a matter of seconds before the five burly Westerners pounced on Leeha and Ram Hwajung.

This was not Middle Earth. Ram Hwajung, still a girl, could not escape their grasp.

Leeha, having undergone lower body surgery, was also unable to make any drastic movements.

Both were quickly subdued. Leeha lost consciousness due to a powerful blow to his abdomen.

“Bang——–!”


Boom-!

The door to the hospital director’s office burst open as Ram Hwayeon entered. There were quite a few people in the room, but no one could stop her.

The fury in Ram Hwayeon’s eyes was enough to kill two people.

***

“Noo-Noona.”

“You stupid fool! I told you to be careful! Not just you, I said it’s not just about you being careful!”

“No, no. It’s not confirmed yet that it’s the Dutch pharmaceutical company! We’ve, we’ve contacted the police, and we still don’t know who the perpetrator is-”

Slap-!

Ram Peng stuttered, but all he received was a slap from Ram Hwayeon, powerful enough to turn his jaw completely.

His expression, which had been like a frightened mouse just moments ago, had now returned to a cold and calculated demeanor.

“No matter if you’re my sister-”

“Shut up and answer the phone. Jachung!”

“Yes, director.”

“Is the call still connected?”

“Yes, it is.”

Jachung handed over a phone, different from ordinary ones, indicating its significance, which Ram Peng couldn’t be unaware of.

It was a call from the chairman of the Ram Long Group, the father of the Ram siblings and the ruler of Hong Kong’s business world.

‘Damn it… I trusted Peng too much. I thought if I just told him, he would handle it, but he turned out to be such a fool. It’s not just about keeping himself safe!’

Ram Hwayeon bit her lip as she watched Ram Peng on the phone.

It had been two hours since they confirmed the abduction of Ram Hwayeon and Leeha through CCTV.

Ram Peng, trying to handle the situation alone, had utilized all his contacts, but he lacked the ability to resolve such a situation quickly.

Above all, as Ram Hwayeon had warned, this was not a simple kidnapping for ransom.

It was ‘revenge’ against Ram Peng, making it even more difficult to resolve.

Trembling, ram Peng answered the phone from the chairman of the Ram Long Group.

Everyone in the director’s office, including Ram Hwayeon and Jachung, was watching him, but there was no room for saving face or dignity.

‘If father were to pick his favorite among his children, Hwajung would surely be included. She has no interest in management or wealth.’

That Ram Hwajung was favored by the chairman of the Ram Long Group was a testament to his cruel side, but at least the fact that he liked her was certain.

Therefore, ram Peng had to take responsibility. An incident had occurred at a location under his management, a place he was overseeing, involving a member of the Ram family.

“Jachung, how about the police line?”

“With the chairman’s instructions, the investigation team is already moving, but so far there’s no significant result.”

“… What about the routes to the mainland?”

“The ports and airports have already been covered. We moved as fast as we could, but it took some time to complete everything. If they acted two hours ago, they might have escaped our surveillance network.”

“Ah… This is maddening.”

This was Hong Kong. At least within Hong Kong, the influence of the Ram Long Group is certain.

But what if they’ve entered mainland China? While the influence of the Ram Tong extends there as well, it weakens the further away from the epicenter, an unavoidable truth.

The situation would become much more difficult.

At this thought, Ram Hwayeon’s anger towards Ram Peng flared up again.

Not only the chairman of the Ram Long Group but also Ram Hwayeon herself favored Ram Hwajung as the most beloved family member.

And who was with Ram Hwajung?

‘Leeha…’

The only person categorically different from other men in Ram Hwayeon’s heart.

The thought of Leeha caused Ram Hwayeon’s heart to ache.

‘Though the Qingbang gangs are under father’s influence, the mainland’s Triads are unpredictable. If they are involved with such gangs, then those two…’

It was the worst-case scenario.

It was unlikely that the Dutch pharmaceutical circle, already identified as the ‘culprit’ by Ram Hwayeon, would go to such extremes.

However, the improbable had already happened, and once it did, predicting its extent was impossible.

Shortly after, ram Peng ended the call and handed the direct line phone back to Jachung.

“I can guess what was said without hearing it. What’s the deadline?”

Ram Hwayeon asked, frowning. Ram Peng replied with a pale face.

“By sunset. They’ll block the media until then. But if we can’t find Hwajung by then-”

“We have to find Ha Leeha too.”

“It’s not my concern to look for some patient! Anyway, if we can’t find Hwajung, I will-”

Ram Peng couldn’t finish his sentence. It wouldn’t just end with being stripped of his major roles.

His legs trembled. His attendants in the director’s office hurriedly supported him as he collapsed into a chair.

Ram Hwayeon sat down in the chair Jachung had prepared, pressing her forehead.

‘Ha Leeha… Where are you? You’re still safe, right?’

Despite the presence of over ten people in the room, it was so quiet that even breathing sounds were barely audible.

“Peng.”

“Huh?”

“You know not to use ‘withdrawing from the mainland pharmaceutical market share’ as a negotiation card, right?”

Ram Peng’s face had aged five years in just a few minutes.

His expression already gave Ram Hwayeon the answer she needed.

“Why even ask? You know father’s stance. 

‘We do not negotiate with terrorists.’”

“That’s right. 

‘An eye for an eye, a tooth for a tooth.’

Ah…”

Ram Hwayeon sighed again.

It was for this reason that Ram Peng couldn’t resolve the situation, even though they had a rough idea of who the perpetrators were and what they wanted.

Give the kidnappers what they want in exchange for the abducted people?

Using the negotiation card forbidden by the chairman of the Ram Long Group meant something significant.

Even if the abducted people could be saved, the person who ‘saved’ them would be punished by the ruler of the Ram Long Group.

A punishment harsher and more severe than simply failing the task.

‘Still, in the worst case, I have to persuade Peng. Anyway, he has a lot of signing authority for the pharmaceutical affiliates. Sacrifice Peng to bring Leeha and Hwayeon back.’

Ram Hwayeon looked sharply at Ram Peng, feeling no sympathy for him.

Considering it was past lunchtime when they were kidnapped, it was around 3 PM.

It was just past 5 PM now, meaning the deadline was within the next two hours.

‘Father’s direct involvement isn’t ideal either. Releasing media control means a massive upheaval and sweep. Provoking the criminals could endanger Leeha and Hwayeon.’

Ram Hwayeon had to make a decision.

Find a way to rescue them within two hours.

Or persuade Ram Peng to sacrifice himself within that time.

‘There’s no third option! Unless there’s a Superman, it’s impossible to find cockroaches that have vanished somewhere in Hong Kong in just two hours-’

『Chzzz… Ram Hwayeon…! Can you hear me – Chzzz-』

Suddenly, a noise broke the deathly silence in the room. Ram Peng’s eyes widened in shock.

“What, what’s that? Where’s that sound coming from-”

“Oh my god!”

But Ram Hwayeon recognized it.

The source of the sound was her jacket pocket! What was in there?!

She hastily took out the item.

『Chzzz – Ram Hwayeon, if you can hear me – respond –』

“Director! That voice is-” And towards the voice, Ram Hwayeon yelled.

“Leeha———-!”

The ‘direct line walkie-talkie’ given by Leeha on the day of his admission was ringing in Ram Hwayeon’s hand.

(To be continued…)
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 『Where are you?! Do you know where you are?』

Everything around was pitch dark, making it impossible to see anything. When Leeha regained consciousness, he was already abandoned here alone.

“Huff, I don’t know where I am. There’s a strong smell of the sea, but I don’t know Hong Kong well.”

He was restrained and couldn’t move properly.

To operate the walkie-talkie, Leeha had to press his face against it on the floor.

『You smell the sea? Can you hear any other sounds around? Where are the kidnappers? Did you hear anything? What about Hwayeon?』

“If there was something – cough – I’d have told you. Ah! They were Westerners, five of them. Quite large. Ram Hwayeon-ssi isn’t nearby. It seems they left me here because I’m not needed… They might seem like amateur kidnappers, but Ram Hwajung-ssi could still be in danger.”

Even in this disoriented and uncomfortable situation, Leeha’s thinking was sharp.

He certainly had no enemies among Westerners.

Moreover, the treatment was too rough.

‘They left the translator in my ear, didn’t check my belongings. Did they think I’d just wither away if locked up here? Or maybe…

They might not intend to kill at all.

The kidnappers wanted Ram Hwajung. No, for such a situation, it wasn’t just about wanting Ram Hwajung.

They were using Ram Hwajung as a pretext to get something from the Ram Long Group.

With just his ability to look around and communicate with Ram Hwayeon, he had deduced these facts.

It was a situation analysis based on rational suspicion.

『We have a rough idea of what type of people the culprits are. First, we’ll secure your safety, okay? We’re going to start tracking your location by analyzing the frequency.』

“Huff, alright. Got it. I better hang up for now. If they catch me talking, it could be dangerous. I’ll contact you if I learn anything new.”

Leeha detached his face from the walkie-talkie. They’re going to track his location by analyzing the frequency?

‘Impressive. They’re doing what even the police can’t. And to think this is my first trip abroad, and it turns into such a mess.’


Leeha blinked, trying to adjust to the darkness around him.

His eyes, beginning to adapt to the darkness, started to make out his surroundings. It was empty.

Literally ‘nothing’ there.

The room was quite spacious, but completely empty… no windows… there seemed to be a light, though…

If it’s above ground, it was likely a warehouse storing something that must not be exposed to light, otherwise it was definitely underground. But it was too barren around here.

‘This smell, dust…’

It’s likely an underground floor still under construction.

‘It’s not a ground-level warehouse. If it were, there’d be some gaps, no matter how well sealed. Here, I can’t see anything. It doesn’t seem like my eyes will adapt any further.’

Then, this place must be a basement.

Leeha closed his eyes, focusing on the sounds. Any footsteps approaching? Any conversations?

‘Just left here. Or is it even confinement?’ Leeha checked the restraints on his arms and legs. They were too thin to be ropes, probably cable ties.

‘I should play dead for now. It’s safest to wait here, as they left me, until Ram Hwayeon finds my location-’

Suddenly, Leeha’s body jolted.

A faint, long scream of a woman pierced through several layers of soundproofing.

‘Ram Hwajung?’

He couldn’t be certain it was Ram Hwayeon’s voice. But in this situation, assuming the scream came from another woman seemed cowardly.

“Damn!”

Leeha frantically scanned his surroundings.

But with ‘nothing’ around and no sharp objects, he couldn’t cut the cable ties himself.

‘Damn, damn, damn. If something happens to Ram Hwayeon-’


No, he had to make a decision.

Staying quiet might be the safest option, but he couldn’t just sit still now. Leeha pressed his face against the walkie-talkie again.

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi! I need to get rid of the walkie-talkie.”

『What? What are you talking about all of a sudden?』

“I heard what sounded like Ram Hwajung-ssi’s scream. I need something sharp to cut these ties. Even if I smash the walkie-talkie, you can still track my location, right?”

『Wait, wait, Ha Leeha! What are you trying to do!? Do you think this is Middle Earth? You’re a patient, for heaven’s sake. Those guys could have anything, and if you move rashly-』

“Sorry!”

Leeha took a deep breath and slammed his head against the small walkie-talkie on the floor.

A hot sensation spread from his temple, and with a crackling sound, the walkie-talkie shattered.

“Argh…”

Biting his lower lip to endure the pain, Leeha searched for sharp fragments. Luckily, there were quite a few plastic pieces with sharp edges on the floor.

“Huff, huff, huff.”

Groaning, Leeha picked up a piece and struggled to move his fingers while still bound from behind.

It wasn’t easy to cut the cable tie without making large ‘sawing’ motions. It was something beyond typical thinking, but Leeha had experience.

During his military service, he had tested the strength of cable ties by trying to cut them with various objects.

‘I can do it. I’ve done it with smaller things than this. It will definitely work!’

After about 10 minutes of sweaty effort, Leeha finally cut the ties binding his arms.

And when he managed to cut the ties on his legs, Leeha realized.

“…Now what?”

His lower body was still too weak to stand. He could barely stand for more than 15 minutes, let alone fight.


And his only ‘weapons’ were a couple of plastic pieces?

Leeha had to face five burly Dutchmen with just these.

‘Think. It’s not about fighting.’

He just needed to get Ram Hwajung out. Just needed to reach the main road somehow. Just had to get a message to someone in Hong Kong.

“Huff… If it wasn’t for the scream.”

Leeha sighed and shook his head.

Then, to save strength in his lower body, he started crawling on the floor, looking for an exit.

“Damn it! What can he possibly do! He can’t even stand properly yet!”

Ram Hwayeon angrily threw the walkie-talkie to the ground.

Her harsh words were not just out of anger but also out of greater worry and frustration.

As Ram Hwayeon fumed, ram Peng and the others nearby flinched. Both experts brought by Ram Peng and those accompanying Ram Hwayeon were sweating profusely.

“How long will the location tracking take?”

“Th-the frequency has been identified, but it will take some time for backtracking.”

“What’s taking so long?! Isn’t this just a direct walkie-talkie?”

“Well, yes, but- with the currently recorded information, it’s not easy to-”

“Hurry up. Finish within 10 minutes.”

“Just to confirm within a 500m radius, it will take at least 30 minutes…”

Ram Hwayeon walked towards the ‘expert’ seated there.

“10 minutes. Finish it within that. Whether it’s a 1km radius or 700m. Once confirmed, we can handle the rest with manpower.”

The exact location wasn’t necessary.

Even within a 1km radius, they could flood the area with people.

And the expert could read the intense anger in Ram Hwayeon’s voice. There was only one response to give.

“Alright, understood.”

The expert’s Adam’s apple bobbed under Ram Hwayeon’s commanding presence. Her face was contorted with emotion.

‘Please just wait and don’t do anything stupid, halihali. You’re less than an ordinary person in this situation…’

Leeha had no time to consider her worries.

He was too busy finding a door in the darkness, focusing on the sounds beyond it, and concentrating all his efforts until he could safely open it.

‘Definitely underground. Is this their hideout? Seems quiet outside…’

It was extremely fortunate that the door was not locked.

Leeha could predict what they were thinking.

The adversary was the Ram Long Group. This was not something that could be planned and executed in just a day or two.

They must have collected information about Leeha and several others near the hospital. The fact that they moved as soon as Nara, Bobae, and Kijung, who had been close to Leeha and Ram Hwayeon, left Korea was evidence of this.

They wouldn’t have cared about Leeha.

‘They must have known I can’t properly use my lower body.’

Wasn’t he sitting in a wheelchair even at the moment of kidnapping?

Therefore, they were lax about the confinement space, only roughly tying him up.

The end room of the basement corridor was where Leeha had been confined. Even as he crawled, he did not forget to observe his surroundings.

‘The finishing isn’t complete. It’s still under construction. There isn’t even proper lighting.’

The haphazardly arranged pipes on the ceiling were a giveaway.

The doors and the building itself were barely finished. Not just the basement, but the entire building likely lacked proper interior finishing.

There would be gaps on the ground floor as well.

Leeha crawled up the stairs using the least amount of leg strength and as much arm strength as possible.

It was then that he faintly heard voices.

Carefully rounding the stairwell, he saw light entering from a distance. There were only silhouettes, but he could make out the figures of two people.

‘That’s the main entrance on the ground floor. Two people are guarding it.’

If the kidnappers were confirmed to be the same five individuals Leeha had seen that day, then at least three people would be guarding Ram Hwajung.

Leeha wanted to rush out and shout, but it was not only impossible, he also had no idea what the situation outside was.

In the worst case, there might be no one outside.

Crawling quickly and cautiously up the stairs, Leeha kept an eye on the two distracted guards by the entrance.

Turning from the first floor to the second-floor staircase, Leeha could see a distinct light.

It wasn’t the dim sunlight from outside seeping in.

It was completely artificial light. Not beaming from the ceiling but rather shooting up from the floor and reflecting off the ceiling, creating dim indirect lighting.

‘There.’

The second floor was an open space, with just pillars standing starkly. The outer wall was constructed, but the entire second floor looked like one big room.

In that darkness, illuminated by the indirect lighting, Leeha saw writhing silhouettes.

“I’ll kill you! You, remember your face.”

“Haha, I find the accents of Asian women charming.”

The strained voice came from a small shadow struggling.

Another large shadow trying to press down on the small struggling figure was also visible.

“Cool it. If you leave any DNA, we could be wanted by Chinese police. Might even get an Interpol cooperation request.”

“Pfft, as if we could live in this country anyway. After this job, we’re heading straight back home. Who cares? Can Interpol catch us in our country? This girl won’t even know which country we’re from. She can’t understand us!”

(To be continued…)
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 “Damn it, stop it because I don’t want to see it! The negotiations haven’t even started yet. Why are you in such a hurry? We need to confirm her safe voice to start negotiating, right?”

The grumbling of the burly shadows was clearly audible to Leeha.

The sound was faint, but the translator worked flawlessly.

‘Ram Hwajung…’

Without realizing it, Leeha ground his teeth. Although he hadn’t stood up yet, he understood what the burly man was attempting to do.

‘Three enemies. How should I handle this?’

Leeha calmed his excitement and surveyed the surroundings. The space was quite large, but that didn’t mean there were places to hide. Moreover, lying on the stairs to observe the situation couldn’t last long.

‘They’ll surely take turns on guard.’

If the guards from the first floor come up or those from the second floor go down, he would be discovered. He had to act before that. But how?

Despite his impatience, Leeha didn’t move recklessly.

He couldn’t afford to move without a proper opportunity.

“Ugh, damn it. I’m all worked up and now I just need to pee.”

It was then that the burly man who seemed to be sitting atop Ram Hwajung stood up. Leeha, lying on the stairs, moved down another step to hide.

‘The bathroom…’

Obviously, there wouldn’t be one. In the still-under-construction building, the burly man simply headed towards a corner of the wall. What to do now?

‘Now would be the chance.’

Only two were guarding Ram Hwajung. If he rushed now, could he save her?

Before the burly man returned from urinating, could he snatch Ram Hwajung away…

‘But where would we go?’

The problem was there was nowhere to escape.


There were still two more on the first floor. As Leeha was thinking, a loud shout came from below.

“He, he’s gone! The guy from the basement is missing!”

The sound sent shivers down Leeha’s spine.

‘Caught.’

They had actually moved.

Leeha realized he had underestimated them.

He had thought they were just guards at their posts, but were they so diligent that they even checked a man with disabled legs?

‘Now that it’s come to this-’

Whether someone from the first floor comes up or someone from the second floor goes down, he would be discovered one way or another.

And if discovered?

He would lose the only opportunity he had of not actually being paraplegic, and more importantly, rather than rescuing Ram Hwajung, his life could genuinely be in danger.

“What?”

“What are you talking about? How could a cripple run away?”

The two men near Ram Hwajung shouted similarly.

Unlike them, still in shock, the voice from the first floor was much more urgent.

“He’s not just run away! Damn it, he had a phone or something! Why didn’t you check his belongings?”

“A phone? Damn it!”

Had they just realized the seriousness of the situation?

The two near Ram Hwajung exchanged glances. The slightly younger one quickly stood up and started running towards the stairs.

“What? A phone? That disabled guy?”


The burly man, still facing the wall urinating, yelled out, but no one answered him.

The young man raced towards the stairs.

“If he had a phone, wouldn’t they have tracked it? Check the last call he made or something!”

“It’s broken! He smashed the phone and ran!”

The young man running from the second floor to the first, the shouts from below!

Thud, thud, thud, the young man finally reached the stairwell. Quickly scanning around, his eyes sparkled as he immediately went down to the first floor.

“Cable ties? How could a tied-up guy run away? He’s not a worm to crawl away, is he?”

“They’re cut! Damn it, we thought he was just a cripple, but he might not be an ordinary guy! I’m going to search the basement room by room, so hurry up and come down!”

The young man and the guards on the first floor shouted and looked around.

The cut cable ties had given him away. Realizing they were not dealing with an ‘ordinary person’, the kidnappers on the first floor thought that the two of them might not be enough to handle the situation, prompting them to call for backup from the second floor.

“Oppa.”

“Damn, I managed to knock one down, but – do I really have to resort to ‘that method’? But using ‘that method’ means I’ll be…”

The stairway was already blocked. The commotion was too great to even spare a moment to think.

It was then that Leeha clearly heard the sound of something: tatatata…

‘This sound-?’

It was a familiar sound. Where from? When had he heard this sound? There was no time to pull this information from his memory.

‘Right. If that’s the sound I think it is – ‘that method’ might work. I can’t be sure if this can be called Plan B, but it’s the only option I have left!’

Ultimately, Leeha had to make a decision.

Turning away from the stairs, he moved in the other direction.

“Oppa?”


To the astonishment of Ram Hwajung, Leeha suddenly turned around and grabbed her. Their eyes were fixed in one direction.

“Ram Hwajung, this might be hard to say, but… do you trust me?”

Leeha knew how desperate his expression must be. It was absurd to say this, with such a face, in such a place.

But Ram Hwajung nodded.

Hugging Leeha, burying her face in his chest, there was no time left for her to think.

The ‘window’ was now right in front of them. Jumping out would surely damage Leeha’s body beyond repair. If they waited any longer, the men would catch them before they even had a chance to escape.

Leeha was fully aware and could predict this.

“That guy-!”

“He’s jumping out the window! Back to the first floor, go out the front door!”

“How far can a cripple get by running, hurry up!”

The burly man ran after Leeha, trying to catch him, but his size made him slow. The men who had just come up to the second floor were now hurrying back down to the first floor’s main entrance.

The window on the second floor, parallel to the main door on the first!

A giant shadow leaped through the still-unfitted window.

“Whoa?!”

Ram Hwajung, unable to even scream, clung to Leeha. He, in turn, embraced her and turned his body to protect her as much as possible.

Even though it was just the second floor, the height was at least 3.5 meters.

Moreover, as he had to protect Ram Hwajung, he couldn’t minimize the impact with a roll. The impact of the fall would be unimaginable.

Just like now.

Leeha was sure his eyes were open, but he couldn’t see anything. The darkness before his eyes and his choked breath tormented him.

Ram Hwajung felt some impact, but it was nothing compared to Leeha’s.

She had used him as a cushion.

“Oppa, oppa!”

Getting up quickly and running away like in the movies was impossible.

Ram Hwajung shook Leeha, but all he could do was groan and spit out saliva, writhing on the ground.

“Ram Hwa…, run…”

While they were struggling, the Dutchmen had all come out the front door of the first floor.

“Hehe, where does that bug think he’s running off to?”

“Hey, we don’t need that guy, right? We only need a member of the Ram Long Group?”

“Yeah. This time, we need to deal with it properly.”

(To be continued…)
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 Although they had no guns, the crude clubs in their hands were more than enough to kill a person. Then, the noise of tatatata that had been heard from a distance grew louder and louder.

Leeha opened his eyes to that sound. The reason he had reluctantly used that method.

The sound gave Leeha a strange sense of certainty.

“Translator, cough, I don’t know if it’s still working…”

“Huh? What’s he saying?”

“That guy, is he smiling?”

Almost lying down, Leeha pointed at the Dutchmen and smiled.

“It’s divine punishment, you bastards.”

Then he pointed his finger at the sky. Leeha finally remembered what ‘that noise’ was from a distance.

It was the sound of a helicopter rotor.

“The sky?!”

Whooosh!

The Dutchmen all shielded their eyes. They were blinded by the intense light beaming down on them from the helicopter.

“Ah! What, what is this?!”

“What’s this light!”

The noise of the helicopter grew louder.

The Dutchmen finally realized what it was.

“He- Helic-”

Tatatatatata——-

“Helicopter!”


The spotlight from the helicopter precisely illuminated the four Dutchmen.

The rough sound of the engine could be heard from all directions.

The security personnel of the Ram Tong Group must be rushing over, having passed all the roads.

『We announce to the Dutchmen: we have you in our sights. If you value your lives, don’t move.』

A woman’s voice followed through the loudspeaker.

Though slightly trembling, the voice was firm.

『No, move or not, you’re all dead. I’ll make sure you wish you had moved earlier.』

At this moment, she was not Ram Hwayeon of the Ram Long Group.

She was the ‘Fire Mage’ Ram Hwayeon from Middle Earth, with a rage like burning fire shooting towards them.

“Ha, ha… Anyway, cough, what a remarkable woman.”

“Oppa, are you okay?”

Screeeech!

Vehicles surrounded the building, and the Ram Long Group’s security team came rushing. The burly man with sunglasses, who had threatened Leeha from Hong Kong International Airport, ‘Geum Bo’, was also there.

“Ha, haha, seeing this, cough, is really reassuring.”

With those words, Leeha fainted.

“Uuum…”

With a faint groan, the man’s arm moved on the hospital bed. That brief moment instantly caused a commotion.

“Oppa. oppa?”

“Leeha! Are you okay? Jachung! Call a doctor!”

“Got it.”


As Jachung ran out of the room, the Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung sisters approached Leeha’s face closely.

“Leeha, are you okay?”

“Oppa. Wake up.”

“Uhm…”

Leeha also saw their faces, sparkling brightly.

Despite his eyes barely opening due to sleep crust, to him, they looked like angels descended from heaven.

But when you’re in pain, angels or whatever don’t matter.

“… Quiet…”

“What? What did he-?”

Leeha pulled the blanket up and covered his face with it.

As he turned to lie down, his body moved naturally. Ram Hwayeon, who was about to say something to Leeha, saw this and barely held back her words.

“Chiit, thankfully his lower body seems fine.”

“Kuk.”

Ram Hwayeon smiled lightly at her sister’s comment.

Although Ram Hwayeon wanted to have Leeha undergo a thorough examination again, she knew she couldn’t insist on it. She also wanted to let him rest a bit more, which was another of her desires. Ram Hwayeon understood her sister’s feelings very well.

Thus, for the time being, she could suppress her growing feelings for Leeha, who had been just a kind and beloved older hyung figure to her.

“The patient has woken up-”

“Shh.”

“Uh, huh?”

“He just fell asleep, please come back later. Dr. Heinrich.”


“Oh! They bring me here in a rush and now tell me to come back later?”

Dr. Heinrich was equally flustered. Jachung and Geum Bo had practically dragged him here, and now they were asking him to come back later? However, even a world-renowned doctor couldn’t openly express his anger.

“Alright, alright. Calm down, dr. Heinrich. After all, taking care of this patient is going to be your most important task from now on.”

“If the director says so, I have no choice. Understood.”

Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and another person in the room, ram Peng, personally escorted Dr. Heinrich out.

“Thank you, Peng.”

“Cheh, thankful my foot. You know it’s not a situation to be grateful for. Don’t fuss over it.”

Ram Hwayeon’s grateful thanks had a rather intimidating edge to it, and Ram Peng’s mood didn’t improve at all.

“Keik, you’re finally getting the hang of it?”

“…Can’t help it. We all learned that under father. Thanks, sis.”

Ram Peng bowed to Ram Hwayeon. It was a gesture of genuine thanks that siblings rarely exchanged.

Ram Hwayeon nodded silently in response to his thanks.

“That settles the debt.”

“Chim, glad to hear it.”

Ram Peng rubbed the back of his head.

If something had happened to Ram Hwajung, or even if she had been safely returned but they had used the negotiation card ‘chairman’ had forbidden?

Ram Peng was well aware of the harsh punishment he would have received.

All of it was nullified thanks to the efforts of Leeha lying in bed and Ram Hwayeon sitting beside him.

In other words, ram Peng’s plan to oblige Ram Hwayeon and owe her a favor came to nothing, but he was not displeased. Escaping his father’s harsh punishment was a big enough benefit.

“No. You still owe. Me.”

“Hwa, Hwajung.”

“Peng, you didn’t assign guards to me.”

“That, that’s because! Hey, get your story straight! It’s not that I didn’t assign them, you said you didn’t want them-”

“I’ll tell father.”

Gulp.

Seeing Ram Hwajung’s icy gaze, ram Peng could no longer speak.

Perhaps the hardest person to negotiate with was right here, ram Hwalung. As the youngest daughter who grew up lacking nothing, there was no room for trade or negotiation in her vocabulary.

It was a simple choice: either fully comply with Ram Hwajung’s request or let her speak to the ‘chairman’ herself.

“What do you want?”

“Ask when oppa wakes up.”

Ram Peng’s plan to oblige Ram Hwayeon and owe him a favor turned into him actually owing a debt to Hwajung instead. Moreover, how this debt would be resolved depended on Leeha.

Leeha was lying under the blanket, unsure whether to look at him with fond or resentful eyes.

The next day, amidst a hectic schedule of thank you visits and a check-up by Dr. Heinrich, Leeha received some unusual news.

“Leeha!”

“Ah, you startled me. Ram Hwayeon, I’m still a patient, you know? After rolling around with Ram Hwajung, I’ve got a cracked rib-”

“Get dressed right now! Hurry up!”

Seeing Ram Hwayeon’s face, Leeha, who had been feigning pain and holding his rib to tease her, was a bit taken aback.

“What, what? What’s going on?”

“Why are you rummaging around for my clothes in the closet and under the bed?”

“The chairman, no, father has summoned you! You have to be ready by 6:45 PM! Hurry up and get ready! Do you have a suit? Shoes?”

“Why all of a sudden-”

The reason for the rush was that Ram Long, the chairman of the Ram Long Group, had summoned Leeha.

And the designer clothes that Ram Hwayeon had bought for Leeha had all been taken to Korea by Kijung.

It was 2 PM now, and he had only 4 hours and 45 minutes to prepare to meet the head of Hong Kong’s largest chaebol. The time was incredibly tight, not just for getting dressed but also for learning the etiquette of meeting him.

***

“At least the damage wasn’t as bad as we initially thought.”

Kijung sighed with his arms crossed.

However, ‘less than expected’ didn’t mean the actual damage was insignificant. Already, a significant number of middle and lower-level users had left the guild.

“Thankfully, the attacks stopped after Bobae arrived.”

“Ah, I didn’t do much. It’s Chiyou’s intelligence that’s scary.”

While Tale praised Bobae, she waved her hand in dismissal.

The other users around them also believed it was thanks to Bobae. Only two had different opinions.

“Kikik, it’s not just because of that. It’s unlikely that Chiyou… would do such a thing.”

“I agree with Biyemi. While Bobae’s skills are tremendous, she can’t cover everything. Even with me around, and then there are Igor and Faust, let alone 『Yamato』, Bobae could be overwhelmed.”

“So, then? What do Biyemi and Hyein think? Could it be because I logged in, the attack ended-”

“Sorry, Kay. Not to belittle you, but it’s not because of you.”

Hyein shook her head.

Kijung, embarrassed to have spoken up, clicked his tongue.

“It’s not simply because someone logged in, it’s because Chiyou herself had a specific goal and the time came to act on it. You think so too, Hyein?”

Biyemi’s question was met with a nod from Hyein.

It wasn’t just because Bobae or Kijung logged in that the attack on Byulcho stopped. Chiyou wasn’t such a simple user.

It was something urgent enough to make Chiyou put aside her revenge on Byulcho.

Hyein tried to read her intentions but found it difficult.

What was happening with the Shinobigumi, Yamato, Igor, and Faust?

Normally, it would be easier to catch the tail of a bigger guild, but Chiyou was always the exception.

“Whew… Anyway, glad you all are okay. Let’s focus on infinite raids for now. We need to quickly recover the level-downs of Biyemi, Jin Gonggong, and Tale.”

“What about the guild members who left, Kijung?”

“Umm… We were already a small elite group. Maybe we should become even more exclusive.”

“That makes sense. Our focus isn’t on sieges anyway-”

“Yes. The new continent will likely be our main stage. Thankfully, we have a good reputation around Red Wood. There should be plenty of applicants wanting to join Byulcho. Plus, I have some people in mind.”

Kijung was not without plans.

If it’s not a simple social guild, the considerations for further development were always present.

Especially in Middle Earth, where one expert is worth more than a hundred mediocre, Kijung’s thoughts were shaped by Leeha’s actions.

‘I don’t know how great Chiyou’s 『Yamato』 is… but if we keep operating like this, we’ll never be able to compete with them.’

Bobae looked worried, but Kijung’s words were met with resolute nods from Tale, Hyein, Biyemi, Jin Gonggong, and others. They all had similar thoughts but hadn’t proposed them.

(Continued…)
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 “Do you have someone in mind? Even if it’s near Red Wood, if it’s a low level…”

“No, it’s not that it’s near Red Wood that makes it low level. The person I’m thinking of is actually higher level than Bobae-ssi.”

Kijung’s words widened the eyes of the Byulcho members.

In the rankings, the only factor is level. So, if it’s someone higher level than Bobae?

It certainly means a higher ranking!

“Could it be…”

“Well, nothing ventured, nothing gained, right? Ah, haha. Well, that’s just a thought for now! Anyway, let’s forget it and go hunting!”

Kijung got up, firmly equipping his shield.

The members of Byulcho, momentarily stunned, quickly came to their senses. Given the level difference, not everyone could hunt in the same place.

Kijung thought it was important to raise the level of the high-ranking users first.

“First, group A, including Bobae and Hyein, come with me to the new continent. We’ll hunt and, if conditions allow, we’ll team up with other guilds to explore the remaining source of evil. Group B, under Tale’s command-”

“Sorry to interrupt while you’re speaking. I’ll be stepping out of group B hunting for a while.”

“Eh? Biyemi? Why?”

Though expected to have strength equal to group A, Biyemi, still belonging to group B in terms of level, decided not to participate in the hunt. Kijung was puzzled.

He felt the shimmer of Lizardia’s green scales.

“I’ll be operating solo for a while.”

“That’s okay. Well, this was more of an ’emergency meeting’ than I thought, but let’s end it here. Everyone, level up hard!”

As group A members left one by one and group B members also started heading to their designated hunting grounds, Biyemi was the only one left in Byulcho’s safe house.

“Chiyou…”

The eyes of the lizard shone brightly.


Others, including Tale, had somewhat forgotten the ordeal they faced at the hands of Chiyou and 『Yamato』.

In a battle that felt like a ‘guild war’, there was no need to get too elated or depressed over the wounds inflicted or received.

But Biyemi was different.

He was a venom mage and a fairly famous figure among the Lizardia race.

“But before that…”

He was also an assassin of the Miyaw race.

Biyemi still felt that these were the occupations and races that best utilized his skills and traits.

“I didn’t want to contact anyone unless necessary.”

What should he do to maximize his traits?

Once the job and race are chosen in Middle Earth, they can’t be changed. But what about ‘dual-trait? Just like Chiyou had both assassin and oracle traits.

However, utilizing dual-job effects makes it hard to raise the experience of original job skills, so it’s not commonly attempted.

“I promised to take revenge by any means necessary, so I have to keep it.”

Biyemi cautiously used some items from his bag.

It was a bit of a bug play, not officially allowed or recognized in Middle Earth, but he already knew about it.

-Petyr.

A method to send whispers to users who have blocked them.

-Who… Biyemi- no, nguyen? Nguyen, right? Wow! This is a huge surprise! Though, I guess someone like you would know this method too!

-Be quiet and let’s talk, huh?

Biyemi communicated with Petyr for quite some time.

“Hurry up, we’re going to be late!”


“Wa, wait!”

Ram Hwayeon rushed out of the department store.

Waiting on the main road was a luxury car far different from the black van Leeha first boarded.

In front of the luxury limousine, adorned with a sculpture of an angel spreading its wings, stood Geum Bo and Jachung, waiting for Leeha to board.

“Ah, I told you my leg is fine! I can walk, can’t I?”

“My leg is fine! But how can I move fast in these clothes?”

Unlike her usual attire, Ram Hwayeon, dressed in a dress, high heels, and full makeup, was definitely dressed up.

Of course, it wasn’t just Ram Hwayeon who had transformed.

“Why? Are the clothes uncomfortable?”

“It’s not that they’re uncomfortable, it’s just-… Ah, never mind. Let’s go.”

Leeha put a bit more effort into his awkward steps. In Hong Kong, the mecca of shopping, there was nothing ‘unavailable’. The problem was that Leeha ‘knew’ nothing about it.

‘What kind of clothes are these- even this one pair of shoes costs more than the used car my mom sold?’

When Leeha had just completed his surgery in Korea, selling his mother’s small car had helped them escape their financial struggles.

Now, the shoes he was wearing cost far more than what they had received from selling that used car.

Leeha wasn’t completely ignorant about luxury brands. However, among the items he was wearing now, there wasn’t a single brand he recognized.

The shirt and suit set, shoes, watch, even the pomade he had slicked his hair with, were all products that could easily be claimed as the most expensive and best in the world.

“Geum Bo! Let’s leave immediately!”

“Understood, miss.”

As soon as Leeha managed to board, the ‘Phantom’ vehicle sped up. The drivers in Hong Kong weren’t much different from those in Korea.

“It’s really amazing. It’s like the sea parting for Moses, the way the path clears. Well, it makes sense; if you hit an expensive car here, you’d have to pay a fortune, right?”


“What are you talking about? It’s not just because the car is expensive.”

“Eh? Then why?”

“The license plate. Almost everyone in Hong Kong knows ‘whose’ plate this is. Oh, in Korea, you don’t auction off car plates, right?”

“Auctioning off license plates in Hong Kong? It’s not Middle Earth…”

“Hehe. Everyone probably knows whose car this is, and even how much the license plate was auctioned for.”

How big of an event was it that people even remembered the price? Leeha wanted to ask but held back his question, feeling it might only make him more intimidated.

In a time that would have been impossible under normal traffic conditions, the Phantom swiftly reached its destination.

A massive hotel, grander than any place Leeha had visited except the hospital and the abandoned building where he had been kidnapped.

“Director, it’s 6:41 PM. I’ve asked them to hold the elevator for us.”

“Good job, Jachung. Leeha, hurry! We can’t even be a second late!”

As soon as Ram Hwayeon got out of the car, she dashed towards the hotel lobby.

Leeha watched her run like a gazelle despite wearing high heels and hurried after her, knowing there was no time to waste.

The hotel bellboy, informed by Jachung, had an elevator ready just for Ram Hwayeon and Leeha. They rushed into it as if being chased by a boss monster in Middle Earth, and the doors immediately closed and ascended.

“This building looked tall, but how many floors are we going up? The speed is too fast, I feel like I’m going to throw up.”

“Don’t you dare throw up. We’re not even halfway there yet.”

“Over 40 floors and not even halfway…”

“Don’t throw up, okay!?”

Despite Leeha’s dry heaving, the elevator continued to the 118th floor.

At last, they arrived at the top-floor restaurant and bar.

When the doors opened, Leeha couldn’t help but be amazed.

In a space perfectly set with dim lighting and no visible staff, there was only one table with three chairs. Ram Hwayeon immediately greeted the person occupying one of the chairs.

“It’s been a while, chairman.”

The commanding presence of this place was on a different level. The man sitting there seemed to completely dominate the area, radiating an aura that suggested he owned the place.

A man who used his name as the company name. A man who was the embodiment of the group itself. Ram Long was right before Leeha.

‘Younger than I thought. Well, Ram Hwayeon is the eldest daughter, so I didn’t expect him to be much older…’

Yet, he appeared almost in his 30s to Leeha.

However, Leeha also remembered the news he had once seen.

His age was much older than that.

“There’s no need to call me ‘Chairman’ in such a setting, director.”

“Yes, father.”

Ram Long looked at Ram Hwayeon with a satisfied smile. Leeha could sense the peculiar atmosphere.

‘Wow! What a presence. What kind of dad talks like that to his daughter, calling her ‘Director’?

Leeha inwardly pouted his lips.

Every family has its own customs, and for a conglomerate like this, there would be training for the successors. It’s not his place to interfere, but the relationship seemed excessively formal.

To him, the position in the company took precedence over the father-daughter relationship, something he had experienced through Ram Pang and Ram Hwayeon. Was Ram Hwajung the only exception?

But still…

“Pleased to meet you. My name is Leeha.”

“I know. I heard our Hwayeon owes you a debt. Since the youngest probably didn’t properly thank you, I thought I should as her inadequate father. Thank you.”

“I’ve received enough in return.”

Leeha replied with a light smile.

“Sit down.”

Ram Long also smiled at Leeha, but Leeha felt a chill upon seeing it. The smile stretched to his temples, but his eyes were not smiling.

As soon as Leeha and Ram Hwayeon sat down, the food started to arrive.

Leeha wondered where and how the waitstaff were observing them, as it seemed quite mysterious.

For Leeha, the appetizer was indescribable, but the taste was excellent.

‘Well, it’s food from a place like this… But the portion is really small.’

As Leeha struggled with the appetizer and even the knife, Ram Hwayeon’s expression froze, but Ram Long just kept laughing.

“Like using a knife, I see?”

“Huh? Oh, I guess so?”

Confused by the question, Leeha could only respond with another question. His absurd reply made Ram Hwayeon’s expression harden even more.

Ram Long slightly lifted his head, and a server appeared again to reset the wine.

“Pour it.”

“Ah, yes.”

Leeha carefully picked up the wine glass and toasted with Ram Long.

Leeha’s Korean manner of holding the wine glass with both hands changed Ram Hwayeon’s expression for the third time, but Ram Long just kept smiling.

“Um, wow. It’s delicious.”

“Wine from the year one is born always holds a special significance.”

“Huh?”

Leeha asked, but Ram Long did not elaborate further. Ram Hwayeon quickly sipped the wine and hinted to Leeha.

“It means it’s wine made in the year you were born.”

“Then-”

Wine aged over 30 years? Expensive, right? There seemed to be no need to ask. Leeha quietly nodded. Ram Long watched him and again lifted his head as a signal. The server came once more, changed the wine glasses, and refilled them.

“Pour it.”

“Okay.”

Leeha toasted in the Korean manner again.

The chime of the glasses echoed across the entire floor. However, the taste of the wine was not as good as before.

(Continued…)
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 “Is it the same? It seems a bit different from the one we just had. I think the wine earlier was tastier.”

“You’re not lacking in taste. Right, Peng is still not quite there yet.”

Peng? Leeha tilted his head in confusion.

Ram Hwayeon also quietly observed and sipped the wine. Her eyebrows raised slightly.

“The wine is the same, but… it’s a vintage of the same age as Ram Peng.”

“Ah!”

Was it that they prepared wines of the same age as the people and were showing a taste of each? What did this mean?

Leeha tried hard to grasp the intention behind Ram Long’s actions.

Even as the appetizers were cleared and the main dish arrived, he didn’t say much.

Leeha wasn’t particularly bored either.

The fact that he was having such a meal in such a place, and that Ram Long was right in front of him, was an interesting experience in itself.

‘Not asking means there’s nothing to ask. Not speaking means I should just quietly listen to the music?’

Leeha decided to just relax his mind.

After all, he wasn’t Ram Hwayeon’s boyfriend, and although he was receiving treatment, it didn’t mean he owed anything to Ram Long.

Besides, if he had indebted Ram Long, it would have been the other way around, wouldn’t it?

Even if Ram Long had the power to crush him, there was no reason for Leeha to be cowed, he thought.

‘So, is this a situation to express gratitude? Hmm. If only there was a hint-‘

Leeha glanced at Ram Hwayeon. But he knew he couldn’t get a hint from her.

He felt it every time, but he still hadn’t adapted to it. A woman who seemed most fitting to the nicknames ‘Grace and Intelligence’, and ‘Smartie’, always showed such a rigid attitude when it came to matters related to her ‘father’.

Today, her expression was so stiff that it was hard to tell if she was eating with her mouth or nose.


Leeha took another sip of the wine that was said to be of the same age as Ram Peng.

First, they brought out wine the same age as Leeha, and then wine matching Ram Peng’s age.

What could be the meaning of this? Or was making him think about it the trick in itself? After all, it’s just wine, isn’t it?

Since Ram Hwayeon was a few years younger than himself, naturally, ram Peng would be even younger.

Then what?

Someone once said that wine is like a person. So, were they equating people to wine, expressing value? Why reveal that Ram Peng is still lacking directly to me?

‘Hmm… this isn’t some riddle from Bahamut!’

Even in this situation, Leeha found himself amused, associating it with Middle Earth.

Ram Long cut a steak, took a bite, and wiped his mouth with a napkin. Only then did the actual first conversation begin.

“You’ve been quite active in our new business.”

“It’s not much to mention. It’s Ram Hwayeon-ssi – no, director Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung-ssi who are showing greater efforts.”

“Middle Earth, huh. When Hwayeon said she wanted to find a growth driver there, I thought it was so nonsensical I could only laugh. Not developing something there, but trying to find some revenue model. Isn’t that right? Playing in our casino would be more fun than that. Aren’t games ultimately just games?”

Was that a question?

Leeha found it hard to decide whether he was supposed to answer that or not. But he had to follow the conversation.

Ram Long Group, owned dozens of hotels and resorts worldwide, and the ‘casinos’ within them.

The emperor of resorts was also the emperor of gambling.

Leeha knew what he meant by ‘game’.

“Well, games are played, casinos are played, and the world is played.”

Ram Long’s eyebrows twitched.

“Living in the world is full of things useless for anything, right? Games, casinos, movies, comics… We’re all just passing through, so in reality, the world is played too. But thinking this way, I realized Middle Earth is not just a game. It’s slightly different from the gambling in the casino.”


“Different? How so?”

Ram Hwayeon spoke rapidly without moving her lips, as if she was a ventriloquist, saying “Ha Leeha!” but Leeha did not hear her.

Before coming here, one of the things Ram Hwayeon had repeatedly emphasized was exactly that. Simply saying ‘YES’ was the fastest way.

However, it wasn’t easy for Leeha to do so, given his nature.

“It could be a game. Or it could be life.”

“Life?”

“Well, to be precise, here, with the help of Ram Hwayeon and Ram Peng, I underwent surgery and was able to walk again. But until then, I had nothing. Absolutely nothing. Middle Earth gave me my life back.”

“There were other ways to earn surgery money, like winning at the casino, working at a company, or doing business.”

Of course.

Leeha nodded as he listened to Ram Long.

“That’s right.”

Ram Long wasn’t just talking about the surgery money. Just as Leeha wasn’t just talking about life.

“Ha ha. As you know, I didn’t have many opportunities. Ah! And I wasn’t just talking about gathering money for leg surgery. Hmm, was my analogy a bit odd? Let’s say… Middle Earth can’t be completely considered life, but… it’s a game, it’s play, it’s life. For me, it was all of that, a new opportunity.”

“Yes, that new opportunity.”

Ram Long’s eyes sparkled for a moment, but not enough for Leeha or Ram Hwayeon to notice.

He repeated Leeha’s words and continued his meal.

Ram Hwayeon looked anxiously between Ram Long and Leeha, but Leeha himself was calmly eating.

Coming here, eating, drinking wine, and talking – it was Leeha who seemed more at ease in this environment.

After a long silence filled only with the clinking of cutlery, Ram Long spoke again.

“I started as a dealer, you know that?”


“Uh? No, I didn’t know.”

“Heh, it seems it wasn’t out of ulterior motives.”

“What?”

“I mean, I started with nothing too. I began working as just a dealer, but I could accurately predict where the ball would land, red or black. Life is like that. Opportunities are always given. The rest is up to one’s own choice.”

Ram Long spoke with an almost excited tone.

Leeha tilted his head, wondering what this ajussi was talking about, while Ram Hwayeon struggled to hide her surprised expression.

‘He rarely talks about the past, even to family members. My father hates this topic.’

It was strange enough that this dinner was arranged, let alone such a conversation! With her father being notoriously unpredictable, there was no way to foresee what would happen next.

Unaware of Ram Hwayeon’s concerns, Leeha finally managed to utter a single sentence to Ram Long, who was expectantly looking at him like a child, making it impossible for Leeha to say anything.

“Ah, roulette!? Is that what you’re talking about?”

“You catch on quickly. Look here!”

Before Leeha could process what was ‘quick’, the waiters were already struggling to bring in a huge circular table.

Leeha recognized it too.

A wheel-like table with chaotically arranged colors and numbers… It was definitely something you’d see in a casino.

“What are the rules?”

Ram Long stood up and moved behind the roulette table, picking up and fiddling with a small, metal-like roulette ball.

“I- I don’t know.”

“Let’s keep it simple then. Red or Black. Which color will you choose?”

From 0 and 00 to 1 through 36.

The total 38 slots were alternately painted in red and black.

Leeha might not know the rules, but he was familiar with the game of roulette. More than anything, he remembered what Ram Long had just said.

『Life is like that. Opportunities are always given. It all depends on one’s own choice.』

As Leeha stood there, momentarily dazed, Ram Long grabbed the huge wheel and spun it.

As if to say that sometimes in life, one must make choices without waiting, he then flicked the roulette ball into the wheel.

Click-!

With the sound, the roulette ball dropped onto the wheel and rolled quickly in the opposite direction of the wheel’s rotation. As the ball clattered energetically, Ram Long watched it with a smile./

“Choose quickly. Red or black.”

At least to Leeha, this seemed to be the only genuine smile Ram Long had shown since he arrived here.

‘Is he saying to choose before the ball stops? Damn, there’s nothing at stake, but I have a feeling I absolutely must not get this wrong.’

Started abruptly, but given the nature of the Ram family, this wasn’t just ‘any’ gamble.

However, Leeha was clueless about gambling.

Predicting which slot – red or black – the ball would fall into by observing its motion and the wheel’s rotation was impossible. Even with excellent dynamic vision, such predictions are unfeasible until the ball actually stops.

And once the ball comes to a complete halt, regardless of his choice, Ram Long wouldn’t accept Leeha’s bet.

Leeha slowly closed his eyes.

What does Ram Long want? How much does he know about me? What answer is he looking for? What is he trying to test?

It was impossible to discern his intentions.

But one thing was certain.

“I won’t make a choice.”

He shouldn’t engage in this gamble.

Leeha looked straight at Ram Long with his eyes wide open.

Ram Long’s expression was stern. Ram Hwayeon’s was indescribable.

‘Is this not it?’

Though briefly flustered, Leeha didn’t stop. The roulette ball wasn’t thrown only by Ram Long.

Now, Leeha had also thrown his own ball.

“What do you mean?”

“Exactly what I said. I was a soldier. A sniper. You probably already know.”

“So?”

“Sniping isn’t gambling. Snipers don’t gamble.”

They only pull the trigger when a certain opportunity arises. Snipers are different from riflemen.

The weight of a bullet might be only double, but the weight of each shot they fire cannot be simply calculated in multiples.

Ram Long understood the nuance of Leeha’s words exactly.

That’s why he could smile even more joyously.

“But there must be times you have to gamble. It’s impossible to have everything in your grasp and calculate. Would you just give up in such cases? Even if that opportunity never comes again?”

What would you do in a situation that’s absolutely unavoidable?

Leeha knew this too. Sniping can be seen as a game of finding the most certain hitting conditions.

But there is no such thing as 100% certainty in any case.

Sniping is a game where exceeding 99.9% certainty is impossible. The reality of sniping includes frequent mistakes due to that 0.1% probability.

Apart from anything else, a sudden gust of wind can throw off a shot. When it comes to variables, isn’t sniping essentially ‘gambling in God’s hands’?

Ram Long likely wanted to say this. Therefore, Leeha already knew the answer.

“Yes. I give up.”

“Your comrade is dying. The enemy is approaching. If you shoot the enemy, you can save your comrade. Would you still not shoot?”

“If you think that’s gambling, then I won’t shoot. Missing the shot could cause greater harm, and even if I hit, I’d fall into the temptation of gambling. Thinking it’s easy to hit without any preparation, that thought wouldn’t be easily shaken off. If I develop a habit of being negligent in my sniping preparations…”

(To be continued…)
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 Sighing deeply…

“That will be my downfall someday.”

Leeha looked straight into Ram Long’s eyes. The gaze seemed so bizarre, almost otherworldly.

He appeared to be in his late thirties to early forties.

But what was the meaning behind those eyes, filled with such enigmatic depth?

Leeha thought that even if Rotzak was brought into the real world, he wouldn’t be able to produce such a gaze.

“I mean, I haven’t actually been on a real battlefield, but if I had been deployed and made such a mistake… I would truly lose my life, right? Ha ha. So, let’s cultivate good habits in advance—something like that.”

After hearing Leeha’s somewhat foolish addition, Ram Long reverted back to having a childlike expression.

Leeha was certain the man before him was a significant figure.

“Interesting. But in the casino, the first ones to lose money are exactly those types. Always calculating odds. They’re the easiest opponents for me.”

“Um, that’s why I’ve been saying…

‘Sniping is not gambling.’ It’s a category that defies such logic.”

Ram Long’s face changed as if he had been hit.

Sniping is not gambling.

“Is that so? Was it like that? Ha! Right. You said from the beginning that sniping is not gambling. So it’s not about probabilities!”

That doesn’t mean sniping is based on probability theory!

It’s something beyond a simple dichotomy! While Leeha’s wordplay might have been lacking, Ram Long was more than capable of understanding and even going beyond the meaning of those words.

“Huh? What?”

Ram Long approached the bewildered Leeha and patted his shoulder. Ram Hwayeon, sitting beside them, wore an expression of disbelief.

“Hey!”


Ram Long called the waiters back in a cheerful voice.

They brought another bottle of wine with extremely cautious movements and filled the glasses of the three.

“Now that I think about it, I called you here and didn’t even show you the view. Come here.”

After checking the glasses were filled, Ram Long pulled Leeha up by the nape, almost dragging him.

Despite his near-elderly age, Ram Long’s strength was so formidable that Leeha was practically hauled to the window.

The view of Hong Kong from the 118th floor was breathtakingly beautiful, transcending any feeling of vertigo.

“Wow…”

“I don’t like people. But I do like wine.”

“What?”

Ram Long finished speaking and brought the glass to his lips. Leeha took it as a cue to drink and slowly sipped.

‘Insane, what is this?’

The flavor and aroma of this wine were on a completely different level from any they had drunk so far.

Even someone who knew nothing about wine, someone who couldn’t distinguish complex flavors, could say this was the best!

“Wow, this is really amazing.”

“Right? Wine becomes more exquisite over time, unlike humans. It’s often the opposite with people. If only I could be as refined as this wine, my life would be a success.”

Captivated by the intoxicating aroma, Leeha sobered up at Ram Long’s remark.

Considering the pattern of the wines served so far, and what Ram Long’s words implied, this wine was…?

‘Ram Long – wine of the same age as Chairman Ram Long?’

How many years old was it? Or rather, how much did it cost? Leeha found himself amused by his own materialistic thoughts.

“That was an interesting thing to say.”


“What?”

“A person like wine. Just a few more years, and Peng wouldn’t even stand a chance against you.”

Ram Long was still just looking out the window, not giving Leeha a single glance, but Leeha had a rough idea of what he meant.

“But, um, I mean, it’s a bit hard to say this… but I think I should stay in Korea. My mother is there, and soon I’ll be opening a store – ah, I don’t mean I dislike Hong Kong. I also find it enjoyable and nice here-”

“What?”

However, it was a pity that he stumbled at the end of his explanation.

Seeing Ram Long’s face, Leeha realized he might have misspoken.

‘I got too carried away! Watching too many dramas while hospitalized – what am I even saying! Just because I said something with the nuance of being better than Peng, doesn’t mean this person will hand over the management rights to me!’

Where could he find a mouse hole to crawl into? Leeha hastily gestured with his hands.

“Ah! No, no, no, I’m sorry. That was nonsense-”

“Phahaha!”

Ram Long laughed uproariously, bending over and chuckling so hard that he spilled a little wine on his suit.

Leeha’s entire outfit combined might cost as much as that suit, but Ram Long didn’t care about such trivialities.

“Hwayeon-ah.”

“Yes, father.”

“It’s been a fun night.”

“Thank you.”

Leeha didn’t quite understand the conversation between father and daughter, but he knew what Hwayeon standing up meant.

‘She’s signaling to leave?’

‘Come quickly!’


Leeha and Ram Hwayeon communicated as if through ventriloquism and slowly moved away. Leeha turned to Ram Long to say goodbye.

“Then, I shall take my leave now. I hope to see you again.”

“Next time? Pfft, heh, sure. Next time. We’ll see each other again, young sniper.”

Would there be another crossing point between a global-level business tycoon and Leeha? Each word Leeha spoke was new and strange to Ram Long.

The unique stimulation that Leeha provided was a source of joy to the elderly chairman, a kind beyond the comprehension of ordinary people.

After Leeha and Ram Hwayeon left in the elevator, an aide appeared from the shadows.

The chairman stopped his aide from trying to wipe the wine off his suit.

“We, um…”

“Yes, chairman.”

“How much stake can we put in Goople?”

“Sir? What do you mean by that…”

The aide’s mind raced with thousands of thoughts.

Was this about a simple investment? A strategic partnership? Influence through share acquisition? Or something more, like a merger or acquisition?

Even as Ram Long’s aide, he couldn’t casually answer such a question. Ram Long wasn’t expecting a reply in the first place.

“Hehe, it was fun to understand that, but to refuse…? Indeed, you only know a person when you meet them. That part was missing in the report. No wonder Hwayeon fell for him.”

Looking down at Hong Kong’s nightscape, the emperor of resorts, the king of casinos, smiled.

Two more days had passed since Leeha saved(?) Ram Hwajung and met Ram Long.

While his days were usually filled with mundane rehabilitation, today Leeha’s expression was notably different.

“So it starts today?”

“A minimum of three weeks of absolute rest, then a month of rehabilitation. Only after that, it was supposed to be possible.”

“But my body is exceptionally strong, so it’s okay, is that what you’re saying?”

Leeha asked, trying to calm his pounding heart. Ram Hwayeon shook her head.

“Sigh, I’m not sure. Dr. Heinrich approved it, so it should be fine. Change your clothes. Let’s go.”

“Where are we going?”

“Do you think there’s a Middle Earth connection device in the hospital? I had one set up in the hotel, so we need to transfer it-”

“Okay, I’ll change right away, Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

“Oh~ You should change when I leave!”

Ram Hwayeon turned her head away in a huff, her face flushing. Whether it was from anger or from seeing Leeha quickly taking off his shirt, she couldn’t tell.

‘Sigh, really. Just when I think I understand him!’

Was this the same man who had saved her sister in a life-or-death situation and then boldly conversed with her father, a man akin to a ruler in Hong Kong’s business world?

She remembered that day clearly.

Very clearly.

She remembered everything from that night: what Ram Long Chairman said at each breath, the tempo at which he cut his steak, and how he drank his wine.

‘Certainly… it was a side of him I hadn’t seen. I knew that Father treasures the wine from the year the was born… So, it wouldn’t have upset him. But what was that reaction about?’

There are a few principles to remember and abide by when dealing with the Chairman of the Ram Long Group, and her father.

One of them is how he treats people with wine.

To this day, Hwayeon had never tasted the wine of the same vintage as her father’s age. The last time she heard about it being brought out was so long ago she couldn’t even remember.

‘But during Leeha’s meeting…? Hmm, did he like him that much? Not really Father’s type, though. If it were me, I’d know- No, not that! Sigh, I asked Jachung about Father’s mood, but he just nodded and smiled… He’s been so uncooperative with me lately.’

Her excitement towards Leeha was quickly turning into curiosity about her father and irritation towards Jachung.

“Let’s go!”

By this time, Leeha had finished changing.

Leeha’s recovery was nothing short of miraculous. Was it due to his own efforts and mindset? Now, he could stand and walk for an hour without any assistance, his lower body regaining vitality.

As soon as Hwayeon led Leeha out of the room, Hwajung eagerly followed.

“Hwa, Hwajung-ah?”

“I’m coming too.”

“We only set up one Middle Earth connection device-”

“I added another.”

“-.. Good job.”

For them, the price tag of several million won per unit was no issue. When Hwayeon simply nodded, Leeha stepped back, gave Hwajung a thumbs-up, and said,

“Heh, as expected of Ram Hwajung-ssi. We can’t live without Middle Earth, right? Right?”

“Hehe, yeah.”

Watching her younger sister shyly nodding, Hwayeon wondered if maybe she was the strange one and everyone else was normal.

“Uaaaah!”

Leeha, more startled than usual, connected to Middle Earth. The sensation of falling reminded him of his last encounter with Hwajung.

‘I shouldn’t have to experience jumping out of a second-story window with someone in my arms ever again in my life.’

Shaking his head, the first thing Leeha did upon logging in was to take a deep breath. No matter how big the hospital and how intense the rehab, being confined was always suffocating.

“Um, now that I think about it… I can really tell, now that my lower body is moving.”

Then Leeha bent and straightened his knees, rotating his ankles.

If it had been before, he would have been thrilled to feel sensations he thought he’d never regain. But not anymore.

‘So this is it. The 50% synchronization rate difference feels like this.’

Compared to the movements in reality, the sensations were somewhat lacking.

Until now, with no sensation in his lower body, the feeling in Middle Earth was enough to feel real.

But not anymore.

Leeha had to adapt anew to the physicality of Middle Earth, walking left and right, even running.

It felt quite uncomfortable, disconnected from his recent lack of connection.

“… I need to ask Kijung how to increase the synchronization rate. Don’t I have to send some kind of agreement to Goople?”

With no immediate way to cure himself, Leeha had no choice but to quickly check his quest log.

(To be continued…)
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 『Common Quest: When you beat the bushes, snakes Will Appear』

Objective: Identify the Demon’s Base (5/7)

Condition for Failure: Fail to identify the Demon’s Base within 100 days (Time remaining: 42 days)

『The Light and Shadow of Radical Growth-2』

Objective: Acquire the ‘World Tree’s Fruit’ material item within 150 days and deliver it to Bahamut (Time remaining: 87 days)

“Wow… Time flies, doesn’t it?”

Although Leeha had logged in relatively quickly, time in Middle Earth didn’t wait for anyone. The quest for the World Tree’s Fruit, which he hadn’t even begun to touch, was already halfway through its duration.

‘But what about the common quest? I cleared up to 5 in no time and thought the rest would be quick too.’ Are there still two left?

Leeha had anticipated at least one of them.

The incident that led to the annihilation of the Rush guild, one of the Demon’s Bases, was where the ‘Arcane Sniper’ resided.

‘But aside from that… is there another one yet to be found?’

Most people on his friends list were logged in. The locations of Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and others were also in the New Continent. So, there shouldn’t be any issues, right?

Kijung: Hyung! Hyung! You’re here?!

Leeha: Hey, Kijung. Hehe, hey, do you know what happened yesterday? I-

Kijung: That’s not important right now. Come to the New Continent quickly, to ‘Juma.’ Hurry!

Leeha: Huh, what? All of a sudden?

Leeha wanted to recount his recent adventures, including being kidnapped with Ram Hwajung and meeting the Chairman of the Ram Long Group, but Kijung didn’t give him the chance.

‘What’s going on…? Why the urgency?’

Leeha wanted to ask more, but Kijung sounded too rushed to continue whispering.

Leeha eventually activated the teleportation crystal. JMA, Juma, as the users called it, was officially named ‘Erika Continent’s Jointly Managed City under the Treaty of the Four Nations of the Lope Continent.’


But no one ever called it by its full name.

It seemed like an internet parody of Korea’s ‘Joint Security Area JSA’ had become the common nickname, Juma JMA.

‘It makes sense. A tiny city – no, a village with four heads.’

Fibiel, minis, Kraven, and Shazrashian, the ‘Governors’ in name, NPCs, made the place dysfunctional.

However, it was the only place in the New Continent where users could fully regroup and repair their gear, apart from the Old Continent.

Since they avoided traveling to the Old Continent, this was the only spot in the New Continent, so it was bound to be the scene of daily incidents and accidents.

Guilds and players entangled in various national and personal grudges, all met in this village. It would be strange if it wasn’t chaotic.

“Kijung!”

“Hey, hyung! Come here and talk to me, if it’s not too much-”

“Cough, Ha Leeha-nim. It’s been a while.”

Leeha greeted the members of Byulcho gathered in a corner of Juma’s square. However, Byulcho was with some other people.

Among them, one who greeted Leeha was someone he knew.

“Ah, ron sir.”

Ron, the guild master of RUSH.

He had initiated a quest in Leeha’s special forces during the national war and was recently at the center of an annihilation incident, making him one of the most talked-about users.

His expression was grim.

When Ron spoke to Leeha first, Kijung looked uncomfortable.

“I saw that incident on video. It was unfortunate.”

“Of course, it was unfortunate. But for some, it might have been good news.”

Another user from the Rush guild retorted sarcastically.


Ron turned around, looking annoyed. Leeha sensed that the atmosphere was oddly tense.

“What’s going on?”

“Umm… how should I put this? I’m quite hesitant to tell you about this rumor, Ha Leeha-nim.”

Ron spoke with as much politeness and respect as he could muster. However, the expressions of the Rush guild members behind him told a different story. With arms crossed and sinister looks, they were glaring at Leeha as if he were an enemy.

“It’s okay. Please speak.”

Leeha’s expression also became somewhat stern. He had expected a casual conversation with Ron, given their rare meeting, but his expectations were completely off.

“You said you’ve seen the video, so you might already know. That day… may I ask where you were?”

“What?”

Leeha struggled to understand the implication behind his question and turned to Kijung when he couldn’t grasp it. Then, Kijung’s whisper echoed in Leeha’s mind.

-They think you did it.

-Did what?

-You know, the thing where heads explode out of nowhere. They think you ‘sniped’ it.

Leeha’s eyes widened in shock as he looked at Ron and the Rush guild members behind him. He was too stunned to even feel confused.

Something inside Leeha began to boil.

“You mean, you think I… I did that?”

“Of course, I don’t believe that. But-”

“But? The way you all came here and what you’re saying sounds exactly like that’s what you mean. Is there another meaning?”

“-That’s not it, Ha Leeha-nim. We just wanted to verify the truth, so we asked the Byulcho members…

“What could I possibly-… Ah; no. I got a bit heated. This isn’t like me. That day, I was briefly overseas. In a hospital. I have so many urgent quests to clear right now that I couldn’t even pay attention to Middle Earth, let alone log in!”

Leeha managed to regain his composure and explained to Ron.


He knew too well that it was ridiculous to get angry about such a thing.

“That’s what I thought, but-”

“How can you expect me to believe that? The internet is full of rumors that Ha Leeha betrayed everyone.”

“Right, like during the guild war between Byulcho and Hwahong! You sniped Igor!”

“Even during the national war. A member of my guild, who’s in Minis, said they were sniped by you from an impossible distance!”

“Shh, be quiet. Let me talk. So, Ha Leeha-nim, you’re saying you really didn’t side with the Demon Army?”

Ron spoke softly, his expression showing discomfort, but the Rush guild members didn’t share his demeanor.

“Of course! Ron sir, you know! Why would I side with the Demon Army?”

Leeha reiterated his situation.

However, it was just Leeha’s word against theirs. Whether it was the Demon Army or not, that wasn’t the issue now.

“Byulcho’s reputation would rise! Maybe you’re trying to hinder them from clearing the Demon Army’s base?”

“That’s why Master Kay can’t give a straightforward answer! When asked about clearing intentions, he just freezes up. It’s obvious. If there’s no sniping this time, it means Ha Leeha did it, but if there is, it causes unnecessary sacrifice. Caught red-handed.”

“They’re just dividing it among themselves-”

The murmuring complaints didn’t stop. The more Ron tried to calm them down, the more discontent the Rush guild members grew.

The discontent of one person might be mere annoyance, but from dozens, no, over a hundred people, it was terrifying.

Leeha, hearing the barrage of accusations from behind Ron, whispered to Kijung.

-What’s going on, Kijung?

-Ah, I don’t know! It’s been chaos for days! I heard this talk and checked the communities, you were offline, so I even posted screenshots on your friend’s list to prove it, but no one believes it! All the communities around the world are in an uproar! There are all sorts of reasons, and ridiculous rumors are spreading like wildfire!

Kijung also looked frustrated, scratching his head. He was equally helpless in resolving the situation.

Leeha picked up on an odd point in Kijung’s statement.

The Rush guild members said they saw it on the community. But RUSH is predominantly an American guild.

And what Kijung just said…

-… Worldwide communities are in an uproar?

-Yeah. In short, right now you are…

When Leeha heard Kijung’s last whisper, he felt as if his recent leg surgery might have been a mistake.

-The public enemy of Middle Earth.

The thought made his legs go weak with dread.

‘Ah, I’m already swamped with quests to clear, and now this…

He had just logged into Middle Earth after a long time, but he couldn’t stay for long.

Although Ron believed in him, allowing the Rush guild to leave, the expressions of the guild members indicated they still suspected Leeha.

After a lengthy argument with RUSH and hearing stories from Byulcho, messages from Leeha’s acquaintances like Shin Nara flooded in.

Ultimately, Leeha had no choice but to log out. He needed to find out what had happened to lead to this situation.

“Crazy…

『Title: But could he really do it? You can’t even see where he’s shooting from…』

『Title: 1. Siding with the Demon Army / 2. Promoting Byulcho. What else?』

『Title: Lre: Just for personal reputation?』

『Title: Lre: Lre: Wouldn’t that be a total loss? Not fame, but infamy』

『Title: Lre: Lre: Lre: In Middle Earth, they’re the same』

『Title: Reason why it’s not Ha Leeha.txt』

The atmosphere on the community forums was anything but friendly.

Every post Leeha clicked on made him frown. About half of the ten posts he read were related to him.

There were no posts defending Leeha. The plausible titles were all clickbait.

‘Damn.’

The busiest Korean community forum changes topics every hour, not just daily.

And this same topic has been going on for several days?

As far as Leeha remembered, such prolonged discussions were rare, except during national wars or voyages to the New Continent. Even the Rising-Sun or Hwahong vs. Byulcho issues cooled down after 2-3 days.

Leeha stared intensely at his phone’s small screen and clicked the ‘Write Post’ button.

‘Do people think I have no personal life and only play Middle Earth?’

As he furiously typed, expressing his recent experiences, Leeha’s hands stopped.

Would writing here quell the baseless rumors?

Would writing emotionally, even if he proved he was Ha Leeha, make any difference?

After pondering, Leeha pressed the ‘Cancel’ button.

‘That’s not the way to go. Without evidence, anything I say will just add fuel to the fire. The writer needs to be Ha Leeha, but more importantly, solid evidence is needed. But to do that, the existence of the NPC ‘Arcane Sniper’ in that place needs to be revealed…

Leeha shook his head.

Anything related to the Arcane Sniper was top-secret information.

In Middle Earth, where the value of information was higher than any game, would he disclose top-secret information just to clear up a misunderstanding?

“Argh!”

That would be absurd. If Leeha wrote such a post, players like Luger and Kidd in Middle Earth would go out of their way to blow his head off.

(To be continued…)
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 “Damn it, damn it. What should I do?”

Leeha got up and started pacing around. The joy of being able to move around in the real world, not just in a virtual space, barely registered in his mind anymore.

‘Where did this ridiculous rumor even start? Are people insane? What did I do wrong?’

Was this what they meant by the downsides of fame?

But Leeha shook his head. He wasn’t famous enough to be the target of such rumors!

“Right, someone dug up and posted my old videos, even those that are almost considered ‘classics’ by now…?”

Leeha made a cup of coffee and sat down to think. Then he remembered something Kijung had mentioned.

‘… Who would have started this?’

A spark lit in Leeha’s eyes.

It all seemed too strange. Leeha immediately started browsing YouTube and major international community forums.

He noticed a pattern in the posts that were particularly popular and had high views on these international forums.

Leeha’s eyes burned with anger.

A person’s habits seep into their writing. No matter how well they disguise it, unconscious habits will show in certain aspects.

Although Leeha couldn’t know this fact, his sniper’s observational skills shone even in this situation.

Were there commonalities in the nicknames and IDs of the users who posted on these international forums?

Were there peculiar habits in writing, like where they inserted line breaks, or how many ellipses they used? Despite the different languages of each country’s community, were there repetitive words appearing?

Leeha had been so focused on this task that his smartphone’s battery was nearly drained.

The hotel’s notepad on the table was already missing several pages.

Leeha doubted himself.

He doubted what he had found two, three times over. But it was clear.


Strictly speaking, Leeha hadn’t discovered something definite. It had been left there for him to find, almost like a ‘reward’ for someone who carefully scrutinized and tracked the information.

To Leeha, it seemed as if he could hear the voice of the person who had orchestrated this.

『I said I use everything, didn’t I?』

Information warfare wasn’t limited to inside Middle Earth.

“… Chiyou…?”

Chiyou, who commanded users of various nationalities and affiliations within Middle Earth, wouldn’t be incapable of such actions outside the game.

It wasn’t evidence to present as proof, but a small sign only Leeha and Chiyou would understand. Staring at it, Leeha clenched his teeth.

“Chiyou? Impossible!”

“Right. Impossible. We can’t be sure it’s Chiyou.”

“What do you mean? You just said it was Chiyou!”

Kijung’s eyes widened as he looked at Leeha.

Leeha’s expression was grim. The circumstances pointed to Chiyou, but there was no evidence to definitively claim it was her.

“It’s just a common point.”

“Written by one person?”

“No, but it’s different from that. I actually checked the logs of those people on international communities, and it’s definitely several people, not one.”

“So, if it’s not Chiyou- no… because of that, it’s Chiyou.”

Kijung’s expression gradually changed as he listened to Leeha.

If one person was spreading rumors across multiple communities, it would be unlike Chiyou.

But who was she?

“Right. Instructions on how to write the posts must have already spread. Then, members of the Shinobigumi scattered around the world subtly edited and posted them.”


“… I should be cursing, but I’m shaking with rage first, damn it.”

Kijung shuddered as he listened to Leeha, but Leeha could only agree with his conclusion.

The anger rising to his head was equaled only by the fear being generated.

‘The Shinobigumi, whose activities in Middle Earth have been scaled down… to use them like this again.’

“Is it Chiyou’s power that can even make an item that’s completely lost its ability shine brightly once again?”

“So, what are we going to do now? Just move together? If we record it and go to the source of the Demon with you and our Byulcho members-”

Kijung’s suggestion was logical.

If there was a rumor that Leeha was sniping users, proving it false would suffice.

The fastest way was for both Byulcho and Leeha to enter that place together.

If there were unseen attacks there, it would prove that Leeha was not responsible.

“No, we can’t.”

“What? Why?”

“If we go, we’ll all die.”

“… Um, I know it’s dangerous, but to say we’ll all die is a bit-”

“We will. Kijung, I’m serious, don’t go there.”

That place had the Shooter of Arcane Bullet. During the Rush guild incident, monsters had sealed off the space.

Hyein might prepare Byulcho better than RUSH in terms of space, but safety couldn’t be guaranteed.

“Damn. You knew something was off… Leeha, you knew something?”

“Not sure, but roughly.”

Kijung nodded.


Leeha’s response indicated there was another reason. Kijung knew further suggestions would be futile.

“Alright, then. Let me know if you need help. It’s not just your problem. We Byulcho are also getting a lot of flak. Don’t think you’re alone in this, okay?”

“Heh, thanks.”

Kijung said goodbye to Leeha and headed back to the New Continent.

Leeha, left alone, pondered what he should do next.

“What should I do? Just carry on with my own business.”

Leeha opened his friends list, scratching his head. He had already blocked whispers from anyone not registered.

A few letters had arrived, some containing criticism of Leeha, but he ignored them all.

The community’s tendency to portray him as the ‘axis of evil’?

That’s just a momentary flame of gossip.

‘Eventually, everyone will work to clear the Demon’s base quest…

And if they clear the place where the Shooter of Arcane Bullet appears, they’ll naturally realize it wasn’t my doing.

‘Besides, according to the story, clearing it doesn’t mean killing the Shooter of Arcane Bullet, so it’s irrelevant.’

This common quest was held by almost every user traveling to and from the New Continent, and all members of the original expedition to the New Continent had it.

What does this mean?

“Heh, Alexander is still busily moving around.”

It meant Alexander also had to complete the quest.

As long as Bailephus was around, the quest to find the Demon’s base would naturally be cleared, and all misunderstandings would be resolved.

“Right! So, the urgent matter for me now is something else.”

-Why aren’t you coming? Are you busy?

-You should contact me first so I can go to you or summon you, halihali. What if I suddenly show up and you’re engaged in some other activity? Humans, especially those of Ha Leeha’s age, tend to focus on reproductive behavior. What if I have to witness that-

-What- What are you talking about, all of a sudden!

Leeha tried to play a joke on the invisible Blaugrunn, but ended up being teased himself.

-Anyway! Come here quickly! Or should I go to you?

-The rare item organization is almost done but…

Swoosh…

Before Blaugrunn could finish speaking, a teal light flickered beside Leeha.

“It’s better if I come to you.”

“Umm, why do you keep not calling me a rare item? Is it because you feel bad about giving me gifts?”

“If you think I am such a petty dragon, I am really disappointed.”

Blaugrunn glared at Leeha with narrowed eyes.

Leeha thought that Blaugrunn seemed particularly irritable today. And there was always a reason behind his moodiness.

“Hey, why so serious? It’s just a joke. About that thing I asked you before I left for Hong Kong, did you find out anything?”

Before going to Hong Kong, Leeha had made a request to Blaugrunn!

Was it necessary to log in to find the World Tree?

‘I don’t know how long that would take… I should use everything I can!’

Normally, one would certainly have to do so, but Leeha was different! He was not just partnered with a simple pet, but a being with intelligence surpassing humans.

Of course, Middle Earth’s intelligent life forms were not without their annoyances for Leeha.

“That’s exactly why I’m annoyed. You just left me with the task of finding the World Tree, and now it’s been days! Plus, you told me to avoid fights if anyone challenges me! Predicting that humans will pick a fight if I roam around in my dragon form, you told me to flee and investigate, which is way more tiring-”

“Hehe, sorry about that. Here, I brought this knowing you’d be like this-”

Leeha looked at the pouting Blaugrunn and rummaged through his bag. Here in the Old Continent, ingredients for cooking were abundant.

“-our Blaugrunn’s favorite Guaco Skewers?”

“That’s- If you thought I’d calm down because of that-”

“Plus rare potion seasoning. Good?”

“Really, that’s a misconception.”

Blaugrunn turned away, crossing his arms, but couldn’t hide the gleam in his eyes.

Leeha quickly set up the grill and prepared the food.

Sizzle!

The sound of skewers cooking on the stone grill.

Each time the seasoning was added, the alluring aroma intensified… Even Blaugrunn couldn’t resist it.

‘Even if Koma sulks, hehe.’

Watching Blaugrunn gobble down the skewers, Leeha smiled with affection.

“Wow, definitely a dynamic taste! As expected, being small – no, compact – makes for sporty movements?”

『If you’re going to talk like that, get off.』

“No, just kidding! Small but fast! That’s our Blaugrunn.”

Leeha clung to Blaugrunn’s scales and lay flat. Blaugrunn snorted in response.

‘If Bailephus is a large sedan, blaugrun is like a compact coupe.’

Sleeker and faster, but lacking the feeling Bailephus provided.

Of course, Leeha knew better than to say this out loud, as Blaugrunn might throw him to the ground, so he kept his mouth shut.

Why did Blaugrunn pretend to sulk and complain about the hardship?

Obviously, because he had acquired information about the World Tree. Knowing this, Leeha had coaxed him with all sorts of cooking.

After teleporting somewhere in the New Continent and mounting the transformed dragon, they headed to that location.

“How far have we come now?”

『We’re still far off. The New Continent is incredibly vast… Do you have any idea how exhausting it’s been flying around almost every day?』

“Of course, I know. That’s why I’m so grateful to you, blaugrun. Hehe… Oh, by the way.”

『What now?』

“Since you’ve seen it from the sky, can you make a map… or something like that?”

Leeha asked with a fluttering heart.

(To be continued…)
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 Blaugrunn, even in mid-flight, twisted his long neck to show Leeha a bewildered expression.

『Sigh… What did Ha Leeha-nim tell me again?』

“Avoid collisions as much as possible… right?”

The reason was obvious.

For Leeha, the existence of the Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn was akin to a secret weapon.

His hatchling form had been seen by many, including members of the New Continent Expedition and a considerable number of people from Byulcho, as well as visitors to the Gaza City.

Back then, it didn’t matter if Blaugrunn was exposed since he wasn’t of much use (?).

But now?

‘Even at the Juvenile stage, his power is immense. Well, he is almost at the Adult stage anyway…

With him, I could wipe out a demon’s base along with Leeha.

Leeha judged that it was best to keep Blaugrunn’s existence hidden for future use.

『Right. So, as Ha Leeha-nim asked, I’ve only been flying above the clouds, so I hardly saw the landscape below.』

Blaugrunn spoke with a tone that seemed somewhat smug.

He found it amusingly ironic that he couldn’t fulfill what Leeha wanted.

‘Ah, I see.’

However, Leeha couldn’t express his regret.

He had complied with what he was asked, and he had indeed located the 『World Tree』.

『Radical Growth’s Light and Shadow-2』

Objective: Obtain the ‘World Tree’s Fruit’ within 150 days and deliver it to Bahamut (Remaining time: 84 days)

Without Blaugrunn, the World Tree quest, with its 150-day deadline, would likely have failed.


There was no point in expressing regret to Blaugrunn, who was still upset.

‘Besides, the direction we’re heading now… I’m not sure. I can only catch glimpses of the ground through the clouds, and it’s a place in the New Continent I’ve never been to.’

The plains where the gorillas of Redwood or the Undercity used to appear were long past. Leeha peered at the ground visible through gaps in the clouds.

‘Initially, the landing site of the New Continent Expedition should be considered the western coast of the entire continent.’

Judging by the direction of the sun, they were now heading east.

That meant the land Leeha saw through the clouds was ‘north.’

The ground there was dark.

It resembled the ashen land left after a fire, as seen in the RUSH Guild’s videos.

‘Not just the north, but the south too…

The emerald land where the paleo appears,

It was a bit southeast from the Redwood on the west coast.

Considering the whole continent, the emerald mountains would be somewhere on the southwest edge.

The rugged mountain range connected to it also didn’t give off a bright vibe.

“Umm… if I have to survey all this on the ground- Ah, wait?”

『Naturally, it will take a long time.』

“No, wait- hold on. I thought I saw something over there just now?”

『Do you mean a paleo village?』

“Not paleo… What is it? A village- no, something like a fortress…”

Leeha quickly brought his eye to the scope of Black Bass.

However, he couldn’t make a clear confirmation as they were already passing by at tremendous speed and the clouds obscured his view.


『It could be a fortress of monsters. Oh, I should tell you in advance. The area around the World Tree is all contaminated.』

“Contaminated? Like a Corrupted World Tree?”

『No. The World Tree itself is fine. But its surroundings… The demonic energy is unusually strong. It’s surprising that the World Tree hasn’t been contaminated yet.』

“Ugh, I see. It probably means that the World Tree will get contaminated once the quest deadline is up.”

Leeha nodded, thinking of the game system in Middle Earth.

The essence obtained from the sea had a purity maintenance period of 150 days. The quest deadline was set because of that.

‘But if the surroundings of the World Tree are all contaminated…’

After 150 days, there is a possibility that the World Tree too could become contaminated and disappear. That’s the kind of game Middle Earth is.

“I’ll increase the speed.”

“Thanks, I appreciate it.”

Though Blaugrunn had been teasing Leeha, sensing his anxiety, he increased the speed on his own initiative.

Swoosh o』——-!

‘Was it a paleo village…?

Or really a monster fortress?’

However, neither option sat well with Leeha.

He would have preferred to go back and check, but he couldn’t afford that luxury right now.

“Look there. That’s the World Tree.”

“Ah…

He had discovered a forest soaring up through the clouds, exhibiting an aura far different from the Corrupted World Tree.

“Amazing… Such a forest – no, to call it a forest -”


“The number of trees is too few. Each one is huge, so it looks like a forest.”

Even after landing, Leeha couldn’t come to his senses. There were only enough trees to be counted as the World Tree.

At most, there would not be more than a hundred.

Yet, just a hundred of these World Trees together appeared like a forest, so immense were they.

“If we just get the 〈Fruit of the World Tree〉 from here, finally! Hehe, finally!”

“But it won’t be easy.”

“Huh? Why not?”

Blaugrunn, in his form of a human child, plopped down on a tree stump. He seemed unwilling to go any further, despite being right in front of the World Tree’s forest.

“Because of those.”

“Those…?”

Leeha tilted his head, looking in the direction of the World Tree forest.

There didn’t seem to be anything special where Blaugrunn was pointing. A few rock-like objects were protruding from the uneven ground.

“I don’t see anything?”

“That makes sense. About 5 meters from where Ha Leeha is standing? If you get a little closer, they will react.”

“Ah! Are there guardians or something?”

But what does it matter? Are there guardians protecting the World Tree? Just clear them out!

Leeha guessed that it would be no problem compared to when they raided the demon base. Blaugrunn stood up, having read Leeha’s thoughts.

“If you’re really curious, just walk 5 more meters.”

“Um, that does make me a bit nervous but…”

Leeha carefully stepped forward, heeding Blaugrunn’s words. For an adult man, it would be about five and a half steps.

One, two, three, four, five. And just as he was extending the half step…

Bam-!

A fanfare sounded in Leeha’s head. But an even greater change was the vibration.

“Whoa! Blaugrunn-ssi?!”

The ground shook as if the world was turning upside down.

Leeha couldn’t stand properly and crouched down, placing his hands on the ground. Besides the sound of the moving earth, another noise caught Leeha’s attention.

“It’s not just that. Look ahead.”

“Ahead? If you mean ahead-”

Hearing Blaugrunn’s voice, Leeha barely managed to lift his head.

Like a flock of birds taking flight from the forest, the branches of the World Tree swayed and rustled.

And when a sharp, refreshing breeze brushed Leeha’s hair, his eyes finally caught ‘them.’

It was as if the world itself was reacting.

“What, what is that-”

“Let’s get out of here first.”

Blaugrunn had already approached Leeha, grabbing him and casting a flying spell.

The rocks that had seemed inert until just now stood up, ready for battle.

But Blaugrunn didn’t use the flying spell because he was scared of the rock-like beings with arms and legs. He knew what those things creating a ruckus inside the World Tree forest were.

The World Tree’s leaves created a sound like waves, and something translucent was being shot towards where Blaugrunn and Leeha were.

“What is that? Something translucent is-”

“The wind spirits. And naturally, the rocks are earth spirits.”

Leeha seemed to hear giggling laughter and chattering voices but couldn’t understand them.

He only felt a slight blurring of the background behind ‘something’ passing through the air.

He knew something was there but couldn’t see these beings properly. These were the wind spirits.

In other words, the wind spirits in the air and the earth spirits on the ground were perfectly blocking any outsiders from entering!

‘Crazy… This must be Bahamut’s doing.’ Blaugrunn only came down to the ground with Leeha after retreating a good distance and watching the spirits return to their original places.

“Ugh, ugh! It doesn’t seem easy at all!”

“If you think about how the Lord got the ‘essence of the world’… it’s to be expected.”

When creating the growth accelerator for the first time, Bahamut had almost ‘snatched’ it from the Water Spirit King.

Wouldn’t it be similar for the World Tree’s fruit?

Leeha sighed and opened his system window.

“Sigh… At least there’s some achievement fanfare-”

〈Achievement: The Source of Life Sustaining the Erika Continent (s-)〉

Congratulations! You have discovered the 『Forest of the World Tree』, which supplies the life energy to the entire Erika Continent. Feel the overflowing vitality in this place, blocking the spreading demonic energy!

Reward: Health +21

You are the first to register the 〈Source of Life Sustaining the Erika Continent〉 achievement.

Up to the third registrant will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the existing effects will be applied additionally at 200%.

Effect: Health +42

“S-grade? Jackpot!”

Leeha looked at the hologram window with a surprised expression.

This was definitely an ‘achievement for discovering a place’. Considering he was the first, it meant even Fernand hadn’t reached it yet!

However, he couldn’t be entirely happy.

He knew too well what it meant for an achievement to boost his health by over 60 points.

‘It’s going to be tough. Especially since the wind and earth spirits are aggressively attacking me, who has affinity with all spirits.’

In this place teeming with wind and earth spirits, obtaining the World Tree’s fruit would definitely not be easy.

♦ * * *

“… Is that so.”

“Yes.”

Only two people were in the dark room.

The people, similar in their hats, coats, and even their voices, spoke in low tones without turning on the light in the room.

“Brown… And… Elizabeth.”

Kidd repeated the names of a woman in his mind, a name that even Browless couldn’t bring himself to say.

Although the incident in the New Continent was a thing of the past, Kidd had not been able to easily return to the Academy.

The impact of the 《Arcane Sniper》, powerful enough to shatter the balance of Middle Earth even considering its over-technology, had been too great.

“He told me to come in person.”

“It’s dangerous.”

“Indeed. It’s been a while since I saw him… While I was rotting in this attic, he must have been playing with the Demon Army there.”

Browless’s voice rose slightly.

It wasn’t just mixed feelings or disappointment. It was different from anger too.

There was a hint of positive nuances like joy or anticipation of meeting an old friend again.

“Will you go?”

“My friend called me, how can I not?”

“He’s not your friend.”

“He is a friend. Even if he became something like Arcane Sniper… He’s a friend. Besides, it’s not even clear if he’s still Arcane Sniper.”

“Regardless of what he is, his attacks will be ruthless. Even if you’re the headmaster.”

Browless slightly lifted his hat brim. A troubled smile was on his face.

“Kidd.”

“Yes, headmaster.”

“Do you think I’ll get hit?”

Seeing one corner of the mouth of the headmaster of Musket Academy rise, Kidd felt a shiver.

(To be continued…)
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 “Browless with 『Rapid Fire』. 『Rapid Fire』 is done with the feet”, said the NPC, wondering what kind of movement it would show.

“Oh right, we were talking about danger detection earlier.”

“Yes.”

Kidd opened his skill window and read again what he had acquired.

The passive skill 〈Danger Detection〉 was different in nature from the skills he had used so far.

‘When I dodged Brown’s attack ten times in a row, I got this skill along with an achievement. But just from this description… Is this really what I think it is?’

While Kidd was pondering, looking again at his skill window and achievements, Browless stood up.

“Let’s go.”

“Where to, sir?”

“If we’re going to see Brown, I’ll need your guidance. It wouldn’t do any good to take you without any preparation. Especially now that you’ve just learned about 〈Danger Detection〉, it won’t be enough.”

Browless’s words quickly eased Kidd’s bewildered expression.

“Does that mean-”

“We’ll leave as soon as the special training is over.”

“Understood, headmaster!”

Kidd grasped 〈Crimson Geckos〉 firmly.

It lacked impressive range or explosive penetration, but the reason it could compete with 『Rapid Fire』 was precisely this – the existence of a teacher who could pass on direct knowledge was a tremendous merit.

‘Good. This puts me one step ahead again.’

Even Browless alone might show equal skills to Brown. If he himself could achieve significant growth in that situation?

‘I can catch Arcane Sniper. If I can block him from using Arcane Bullet,

it’s possible.’


And he would become the successor to Arcane Sniper!

Plans rapidly formed in Kidd’s mind.

The only problem was if Luger and Leeha decided to interfere(?). He opened his friends’ window to check their locations.

‘Damn, Luger… Still can’t forgive yourself, huh? Staying in the hunting grounds ever since that day.’

After returning from death, Luger had been pouring everything into leveling and skill development, focused solely on hunting.

What did it mean for someone nicknamed a war fanatic and mercenary to be hunting away from other users?

When he returned again, he would surely show growth, but Kidd was confident. He would be one step ahead.

‘And Leeha, who logged in after a long time – Hmm? 『Forest of the World Tree』? There’s such a place in the New Continent…’

Kidd’s smile, which was about to reach his ears, was stopped by Leeha, as usual.

Kidd had thought that Leeha, upon returning to Middle Earth, would first visit 『The Blooming Barren Land』.

‘So he doesn’t plan to clarify the misunderstanding that he’s Arcane Sniper. Well, thinking about him is a job in itself. I know predictions are pointless with you.’

Kidd chuckled and followed Browless out.

What Luger or Leeha were doing wasn’t important now.

In the academy’s training field, a low-level musketeer user was practicing.

Kidd glanced at him, fiddling with black powder, for less than a second.

“Where are you looking.”

At that moment, Browless’s hand, which had nothing before, now held a revolver. No, he was pulling the trigger.

Tadaaaa C』——-!

♦

“Ugh, what to do. What should I do.”


At that time, Leeha was wandering around the edge where the spirits reacted, looking restless like a dog that needs to go out.

“Ha Leeha-nim definitely has affinity with all spirits, right?”

“I do! I’ve told you several times already.”

“That’s strange… Then the spirits shouldn’t be reacting like this.”

“That’s why I’ve been thinking – sigh, never mind that. But why are they so hostile towards Blaugrunn-ssi?”

“I don’t know either. Maybe it’s because I belong to the Metal clan”, Blaugrunn said, sitting on a small rock, swinging his legs leisurely and speaking in a relaxed manner.

“Well, am I the only one in a hurry? Ugh, if I can’t get the World Tree’s fruit this time, the essence of the world will vanish.

It will take over six months to retrieve the essence of the world again. And that’s only possible if the Sea God and Drake are as cooperative as they were this time. Who knows what kind of high-difficulty quest they will assign then?

‘I must do it now. There’s no next time in Middle Earth; if you can’t do it when you can, it’s over.’

This means the opportunity to evolve Blaugrunn to an Adult-class becomes significantly distant!

Knowing this made him even more urgent.

“If you have affinity with spirits, they usually don’t attack, right?”

“Even without affinity, they don’t attack. Spirits are different from monsters. They’re just more indifferent.”

“But why are they attacking now…?”

“If I knew that, I wouldn’t be sitting here, halihali-nim.”

Hearing Blaugrunn’s words, Leeha barely swallowed his frustration.

Even after a long absence, there was something annoyingly familiar about him. Perhaps he was still seeking revenge for being left to struggle alone.

‘It’s strange. Whether I go in, or Blaugrunn-ssi goes in, the spirits attack us. Like mages’ automatic guardians or summoned creatures.’

Leeha had tamed Puels and had seen ‘Jjatchang.’

If he ordered Puels to attack all living beings within a certain range, Puels would react just like the spirits now.


This made sense from a system perspective.

But what are spirits?

They are not guardians, summoned creatures, or pets, but sentient beings, which makes it nonsensical.

‘Neither users nor dragons can enter… The reacting spirits are of the Earth and Wind. Speaking of which, do they not fight each other? Maybe spirits don’t take defensive stances against each other? But if they give quests, there must be a way-‘

As Leeha sighed, his eyes caught sight of the ‘vest’ he was wearing.

It was a regular vest in color and material.

But what was its true nature? Leeha’s eyes widened.

“Blaugrunn-ssi.”

“Yes?”

“The spirits reacting inside are of the Earth and Wind, right?”

“Yes. But I don’t understand why you’re asking that again-”

“No, listen. When we were getting the essence of the world. Do you remember what the Sea God said?”

“Of course. He said a lot, which part specifically? I can answer everything-”

“Kekeke.”

Seeing Blaugrunn’s confident expression, Leeha laughed. He wasn’t asking because he didn’t know.

“Jellypong! Battle mode: Agility!”

『Mongmongmong?!』

Jellypong, surprised by the sudden command, nevertheless didn’t hesitate to react.

What was a part of Leeha’s vest now revealed its form in front of him, transforming into battle mode.

“Hehe, Jellypong?”

『Mong! Mong!』

Jellypong raised one arm in a salute to Leeha. Leeha smiled at Jellypong’s gesture.

“Go.”

『Mong…?』

“Go, I said. Over there.”

『Myongmyong…?』

Jellypong looked hesitant – at least that’s how it appeared to Leeha – pointing towards the World Tree.

It seemed to be asking if the command Leeha gave was accurate.

“Ha, halihali-nim? You don’t mean… to send Jellypong in alone?”

Blaugrunn was just as perplexed.

But Leeha was resolute. Though Blaugrunn’s question was clearly intended to dissuade him, Leeha didn’t even look his way.

“Hurry up, will you? You have plenty of strength anyway. Don’t worry and go!”

『Mong.. Mong.』

Jellypong eventually started walking towards the World Tree.

Blaugrunn, who had been sitting on the rock, suddenly stood up and rushed over to Leeha.

“It’s good to try different approaches, but it would be better if you shared your intentions with me, your partner. After Jellypong wakes the spirit guardians, I’ll be the one to retrieve the item-”

“No. Just wait and see.”

Leeha calmed the excited Blaugrunn and watched Jellypong.

Despite being a dragon who acts as if he knows everything, there is a difference between having knowledge and applying it as wisdom in real life.

Leeha thought as he watched Jellypong walk slowly.

‘After Bahamut stole the essence of the world, the Sea God tried to go after him. Whether it was to argue or fight, I don’t know, but he tried. But then, there were ‘beings’ that stopped the Sea God.’

Leeha remembered their names. Sylphid and Gnoas.

The King of Wind Spirits and the King of Earth Spirits.

The Sea God was also tied up with ‘Elaim, the Water Spirit King.’

Only about 3m left for Jellypong to enter the boundary where the spirits react!

Jellypong glanced back at Leeha once more, but Leeha just nodded slightly.

Beside him, blaugrun looked anxiously back and forth between Leeha and Jellypong.

‘Right. It’s clear. That’s why Sylphid and Gnoas stopped the Sea God.’

The growth accelerator required the essence of the world and the fruit of the World Tree.

If we consider that, the Wind and Earth Spirits guarding the World Tree right now are in a kind of symbiotic relationship.

And if we just consider their ‘situation’

『Mew, mongmong!』

Jellypong abruptly drew in its feet.

The vibration started immediately.

“Even if Jellypong is strong, you shouldn’t be provoking a fight like this. Don’t you know it’s not something to be done?”

Rocks rose with the vibration of the ground.

The branches of the World Tree quivered, and the Wind Spirits emerged.

〈Battle Mode: Agility〉

In this state, health might drop slightly, but the attack power is extremely strong.

However, the number of spirits is not something that can be fought.

Blaugrunn glanced at Leeha and cautiously began to use magic, but Leeha grabbed his shoulder to stop him.

“Wait. Just watch.”

“But it’s dangerous-”

“No.”

Leeha focused his eyes on Jellypong. One of Jellypong’s arms had transformed into a sharp blade.

『Mew, mongmoooooo—–

—–』

“It’s not dangerous. Jellypong! Don’t attack!”

Leeha yelled at Jellypong.

Jellypong, having its own consciousness but absolute obedience to Leeha’s commands, reverted its arms back to their original state.

Even as the Wind and Earth Spirits rushed at Jellypong, Leeha’s thoughts didn’t stop.

‘It’s clear. It’s right. Considering the situation they were in, Jellypong can’t be attacked! Why?!’

Because the Sea God, elaim, the Water Spirit King, was also ‘on the same side’ as the Wind and Earth Spirits.

“…This is unbelievable. That is…”

“Just sometimes, it’s good to trust the words of a senior in life, blaugrun-ssi.”

“Me, a senior in life?! If we talk about age-”

“That’s dragon life. Human life, human.”

Leeha drew the character 人 in the air with his finger, laughing.

Blaugrunn, puffing his cheeks, turned his head, but he had nothing to argue.

The Wind and Earth Spirits were about to pounce on Jellypong when two new life forms appeared in front of it.

“Ah, but what are those?”

“Those are top-grade Earth and Wind Spirits. They may not know much about life due to their short time polymorphed as humans, but in terms of knowledge about Middle Earth- Please, listen to me until the end!”

Blaugrunn tried to assert himself, but Leeha was already walking towards Jellypong, forcing Blaugrunn to quickly follow.

Leeha’s prediction was accurate.

(To be continued…)
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 『Mew, mongmong?!』

Jellypong looked perplexedly at the two beings that had suddenly appeared before it. However, the beings in front of Jellypong were just as bewildered, their mouths moving without Jellypong understanding a word.

“Ah, yes, yes. Thinking it was a water spirit, we started talking, but it turns out it’s not a water spirit. So, communication doesn’t work? Isn’t that the flow of things here? Right?”

As Leeha approached them nonchalantly, like a gangster swaggering forward, blaugrun slapped his forehead in disbelief at Leeha’s manner and words.

“Do you really want to miss this opportunity with such remarks?”

“Kik, no way! Blaugrunn-ssi! How can we communicate with these spirits?”

Leeha turned towards Blaugrunn. Turning his back to the spirits might have seemed like a show of fearlessness, but he was no longer afraid.

Just as Blaugrunn was about to respond, a voice interjected.

“A person with affinity to our clan, I see.”

“Wow, where on earth did you find such a pure and unique water spirit? But wait, were there water spirits of this rank? It can hardly speak, yet its purity is so high.”

A male and a female voice.

Leeha’s ears perked up.

He quickly exchanged words with Blaugrunn and then turned towards them.

“Nice to meet you, noeanen-nim of the Earth Spirits and Celestine-nim of the Wind Spirits.”

The muscular man, arms crossed like Hulk, was the embodiment of Noeanen, a high-grade Earth Spirit, and the woman, whose hair fluttered like a goddess even while standing still, was Celestine, a high-grade Wind Spirit.

Leeha greeted them boldly and gracefully.

Of course, he had whispered to Blaugrunn for their names just a moment ago.

“Pretending to know! How did a human come here? Having affinity with us but also carrying ‘that one’s’ energy.”

“Hmm. Even what he carries on his shoulder says so. But… if he’s traveling with this water spirit-”

Celestine was wary of Leeha, but Noeanen looked puzzled.


Leeha quickly scanned their faces. He had realized something was off.

‘The keywords that just came up are ‘that one’ and something on my shoulder – obviously talking about Black Bass.’

Spirits don’t attack even if there’s no affinity.

But the excessive caution shown towards Leeha and Blaugrunn had a clear meaning.

『We must protect this World Tree at all costs.』 The target was still unknown, but the resolve was clear.

For Leeha, befriending them was necessary, both to uncover the reason and to obtain the fruit of the World Tree.

“We are not suspicious people. The Jellypong here is a water spirit born from the essence of Elaim-nim, the Water Spirit King. I received it as a gift from Elaim-nim and am trusted enough to perform 〈Mermaid Transformation〉.”

“Mermaid Transformation?!”

“Even Elaim-nim is known for being curious, but to give a human mermaid transformation…”

“〈Mermaid Transformation〉!”

Seeing them tilt their heads in confusion, Leeha immediately activated his skill.

His perfectly normal legs transformed into a squid’s tentacles – shocking Celestine.

“Wow! It’s true! Heehee, a human with mermaid transformation! Sylphid-nim will have a good laugh about this!”

“… Celestine. Don’t forget our purpose.”

“Our purpose, of course, I haven’t forgotten! You also prepared a lot to tell Noas-nim.”

“Uh…”

As Noeanen, who intended to judge Leeha, intensified his guard, silestin retorted with a groan.

“How about it? With the trust of the Sea God to this extent, perhaps we can also be of help to you?”

Leeha undid his mermaid transformation and smiled.

He grinned excessively, to the point of being almost silly, but of course, it was all calculated.


“If Elaim-nim sent you, then the purpose must be one. Fine. Human, and… Juvenile Bronze Dragon. Permission granted for the entry of both life forms.”

Their cautious stance had significantly softened, thanks to Jellypong’s proof of existence and the use of the mermaid transformation skill.

Noeanen swiftly waved his arm, and Celestine flicked her hair, prompting the spirits surrounding Jellypong to return to their original places.

Leeha quietly hid his hand behind his back and gave a thumbs up.

“…Who said you’re not impressive? I was just about to say you did well.”

Blaugrunn grumbled as he walked ahead of Leeha, who followed with a smile.

‘Now, where to start the approach?’

Jellypong, like a puppy separated from its mother, quickly ran back into Leeha’s arms and resumed its vest form.

Looking up at the World Trees towering as if they could rip through the clouds, Leeha composed his thoughts.

‘I have to somehow extract the fruit of the World Tree.’

It meant successfully walking the tightrope between alertness and trust.

‘Can this even be called a forest…?’

As he moved deeper into the area where the World Trees gathered, Leeha experienced something bizarre.

Like intertwined brambles, the space between each World Tree was connected by small branches, like nerve cells interlocking.

‘So this is what they meant by saying a World Tree is not just one tree.’

The World Trees were both a whole and individual entities, all interconnected.

Of course, the ‘small branches’ were relative to the World Trees’ massive trunks; each branch was thick enough for Leeha to lie on.

“In Lope Continent, I only saw the corrupted ones, but this is how they originally are. Impressive.”

“The corrupted? Ah, ah. Those were never true World Trees. They grew that way because they were corrupted from the start. A proper World Tree always forms a grove.”

Noeanen responded nonchalantly to Leeha’s sincere admiration, his muscular frame even larger than any giant Leeha had met.


Probably 15 times bigger than Igor.

“It’s sad that this is the only grove left on this land… Damn those wretched beings.”

Celestine muttered to herself, picking up on Noeanen’s words.

Despite her slender frame, silestin’s height was not to be underestimated, almost as tall as Noeanen, looking even taller due to her slimness.

“There are no more World Trees in Erika, the New Continent?”

“Wasn’t that why Elaim-nim sent you? To guard this.”

Celestine looked puzzled. Leeha nodded as if agreeing.

Blaugrunn glared at Leeha, but Leeha grabbed the little dragon’s head and turned his gaze forward.

-I know what you’re going to say. Shh.

-Elaim-nim didn’t send you.

-Shh, shh! If you say that out loud, we’re both dead, you know?

-Liar.

-Why am I a liar? I just said I’m trusted by Elaim-nim. Who said Elaim-nim sent me?

-Ugh… Petty.

-That’s adult diplomacy for you.

“If this is the only World Tree and its grove… then it must be bearing fruit, right?”

As soon as the word ‘fruit’ popped up, the gazes of the two high-grade spirits bore down on him.

Leeha had never seen such a look, but it was as fiery as he imagined a fire spirit’s gaze would be.

“That’s it. That’s what we must protect.”

“The fruit that can only be formed by absorbing all the energy of the earth and the wind… The World Tree produces only one such fruit of life in its lifetime.”

Leeha had to manage his expression upon hearing Celestine’s explanation.

What does that mean? One per tree?

“…One? One per tree?”

“Of course. Once a World Tree bears fruit, it’s as if it’s done all its work. One World Tree dies… and two seeds from the fruit will create two new World Trees. A World Tree can only increase its kind by one…

That’s why World Trees are so rare.

They differed from the typical reproduction of plants.

“But still. It’s good they multiply. Then, there’s no point in the fruit staying on for long! As soon as it bears fruit, you should pick it and immediately plant the seeds and grow them again- Wait, wouldn’t that increase the number of World Trees?”

Leeha was chilled by the thought of only one fruit per tree but felt somewhat relieved thinking that taking one wouldn’t significantly harm the grove.

But his assumption shattered with Noeanen’s next words.

“Right. If only it didn’t take 500 years for a World Tree seed to grow this large and another 300 years to bear fruit.”

Obtaining the fruit of the World Tree was not a high-difficulty quest for nothing, taking more than 150 days.

‘The moment I take the fruit… I’m essentially killing a World Tree. I’d also be trampling on the possibility of two new World Trees growing. It’s almost like completely destroying a plant on the verge of extinction.

‘How can a quest be like this?’

Isn’t this a quest leading to the extinction of a species? And to do so by deceiving these innocent spirits, using the friendship…

Leeha had to curse Bahamut in his mind for a long time.

Compared to before taking the fruit, it would require at least 800 years for the World Tree to be in the same situation and number of individuals.

‘Crazy. I feel guilty even though it’s just a game. This isn’t just about plucking a fruit; it’s about changing the entire game landscape, isn’t it?’

Meanwhile, notifications like 『You have received a letter.』 annoyingly popped up, adding to Leeha’s troubles along with the indiscriminate terror of the users who publicly knew him, the absurd difficulty of the quest, and the situation in Middle Earth, all intertwining in his mind like the World Trees.

‘Sigh… I don’t know. First, I have to work hard on building rapport.’

“Waaaaaai——–!”

“It’s definitely Alexander-nim!”

“I love you, Alexander! I love you, Bailephus!”

The users cheered at the sight of the colossal golden dragon crossing the sky. Bailephus and Alexander, receiving the cheers, showed no change in expression.

“How’s the situation?”

『We alone are enough. With humans below, it will be even easier.』

“Hmm. Let’s go.”

The spear Alexander was holding suddenly extended.

The top-ranked user effortlessly held the spear, now over 15 meters long, tilting its tip.

When white radiance began to emanate from the tip of his spear, nothing could block their path.

When the Ancient Gold Dragon and the top-ranked dragon knight began their ruthless charge, the users on the ground rushed forward in competition.

“Run, run!”

“Even if we catch a few small fries, we’ll complete an achievement! Hurry up and form a party, quickly!”

“This is the only chance to join a party with Alexander-nim!”

Despite the menacing presence of the monsters, they were no match for the humans blinded by achievements.

Moreover, much of the opposition had already been cleared by the dragon and Alexander, who were leagues ahead.

While Leeha struggled in the Forest of the World Trees, unable to find a clue to obtain the fruit, time continued to flow relentlessly.

『Common Quest: When You Cut the Grass, snakes Will Appear』

Objective: Verify the demon’s base (6/7) Condition for Failure: Failure to verify within 100 days (Remaining time: 39 days)

(To be continued…)
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 “Woke up———–!”

“Friendship, achievement, achievement, a B+ grade!”

“Ahh, no wonder it was easy…

“Easy? If it wasn’t for Alexander-nim, would you have admitted a complete defeat?”

“Kack! Are you trying to kill me?!”

After approximately 1 hour and 30 minutes, what wasn’t quite a raid had ended, and the users were all cheering.

However, at the same time, a few users had dark expressions.

Earning achievements is merely a moment of joy. What’s truly important is the quest itself.

And those users who knew that there was still one more hurdle to clear for this quest naturally had gloomy expressions.

“Is that the only place left?”

“Can we really beat it?”

The disaster of the Rush guild was still lingering in the minds of the users of the New Continent. Worry and anxiety spread in an instant.

However, there was one different fact that was encouraging for them.

The fact that there’s one last gate left means, conversely, that everyone’s strength can be concentrated.

There’s only about one month left in Middle Earth time.

Less than 8 days in real time. If you log out and leave for a few days, it means the quest will just end.

Naturally, with so little time left, it was the opinion of the users that all the rankers had to cooperate.

And this opinion was not baseless.

“Lee Jiwon-nim is also participating, according to his internet post.”

“Wow, awesome, doesn’t that mean we’ll definitely beat it?”


“… Maybe. You never know.”

“What’s there to not know? Will Ha Leeha play games all night? Just quickly beat it when that guy logs out.”

“Is that necessary? Lee Jiwon-nim is a master of PVP, right? Just find Ha Leeha and kill him, then beat it. Total gain.”

“Alexander-nim won’t just sit back and watch either.”

“Wow, shit. The 1st and 2nd in ranking are going to kill Ha Leeha?”

The users’ eyes sparkled.

No one hates to see a villain die.

Leeha, still unable to shake off the image of a public figure, saw the day end in Middle Earth.

“Ha, ha. I’ve brought it! The sacred water from the ‘Lake where no light enters’! For something like the World Tree, of course you need to sprinkle this kind of water.”

Leeha, with a bucket full of water in both hands, was catching his breath.

“Hmm, well, it’s not totally useless.”

“Ooh, it’s quite far from here… You went to places even we haven’t fully grasped?”

“Of course! I too am a ‘person who wants to protect the World Tree’!”

Leeha smiled broadly. Noe-a Nen and Celestin’s surprised expressions were brief, and they soon became expressionless again.

“But in order to protect the World Tree…

“This alone won’t do.”

Leeha had to try his best to maintain his smile. He knew what the change in expressions and pursed lips of the spirits meant.

‘Damn it! Even this doesn’t increase my affinity? You won’t give me the quest?’

The fact that the effect of affinity increase was almost negligible! Since entering Blaugrunn and coming here, a lot of time had passed.

『Rapid Growth of Light and Shadow-2』


Objective: Acquire the ‘Fruit of the World Tree’ within 150 days and deliver it to Bahamut (Remaining time: 76 days)

Beep- Beep- Beep-

“Ah!”

“Hmm?”

“No, nothing. It’s nothing.”

Even amidst this, there were ringing call signals in his mind.

Leeha felt the cruelty of reality anew. If only I could focus on the game properly, it seems like I could really do it!

“Every time the story seems to be progressing, I get interrupted by a call like this. But I can’t just ignore it and not log out. The calls are related to my rehabilitation therapy.

The time for rehabilitation therapy, of course, along with meals and sleep for condition management, are essential elements.

In Korea, it was impossible to be a shut-in, connected to the game for more than 30 hours.

Even if Heinrich, the doctor, didn’t say anything, Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung were determined to strictly manage Leeha.

‘If I log out now, have dinner, do a bit of rehab therapy, and then sleep… I’ll just be wasting another 3-4 days in Middle Earth.’

Since first logging into this place, I hadn’t gathered much information.

They talked a bit about anything related to the World Tree, but they gave no information about anything else.

‘If they were regular NPCs, I could try to bribe them with food… but spirits don’t even eat.’

The little bear cub, a fusion of bear and fire spirits, enjoyed eating, but they are pure spirits.

Not to mention they are of the ‘highest grade’, excluding the Spirit King himself.

Even if I could tempt them with food, they are not the type to be swayed.

“Ah, next time, fertilizer… Maybe I should prepare something like fertilizer to help the World Trees grow well. When one of these fruits is sprinkled on the ground, it grows vigorously-”

“Right now, I have no intention of picking the fruits.”


“… Understood. Then, I’ll see you again next time.”

Despite Leeha’s greeting, the spirits just snorted and turned their heads away.

The only consolation was that there are about five World Trees currently bearing fruit in this World Tree cluster.

Of course, Leeha had never actually seen them. The fruit of the World Tree grows only at the very top.

From Leeha’s position, busy carrying water from the ground, it was a place so high that it wasn’t even visible.

‘Damn it, in the worst case, should I just pick one and run away? What will they do if I call Blaugrunn and escape?’

If Blaugrunn was here, he would have smacked Leeha on the butt for such a dishonorable thought.

But now, blaugrun had returned to his lair.

Leeha sent him back to the lair to increase his affinity with the spirits.

‘I sent him away fearing that Bahamut’s family wouldn’t be persuaded, but it seems like it was a useless move… Ah well, let’s just leave.’

Leeha prepared to log out as the calling sound came to him again. It was then that he heard Kijung’s whisper.

-Hyung!

-Ah, Kijung. What’s up? I was about to leave.

-Really? Then I’ll call you after I log out.

Before Leeha could respond, Kijung’s whisper ended.

Suddenly hearing from him was surprising.

What could it be? Leeha hurriedly exited Middle Earth.

“A total attack?”

-You don’t even check the community these days! It’s chaos, chaos! You know there are only 26 days left for that quest, right? The common quest.

“Ah, ah.”

Leeha concentrated on the phone call, blocking one ear.

That’s because Ram Hwayeon had been nagging him all the way from the hotel to the hospital.

-Anyway, there’s only one stronghold of Ma (Demon) left. This time, instead of moving as individual squads, there’s talk of everyone with the quest gathering and going together.

“Oh, really? That’s unusual. Users who can’t live without competition, coming together with one mind.”

If the last stronghold of Ma (Demon) is cleared, everyone who participates in the battle earns an achievement.

Since achievements can be earned regardless of the party, so far, guilds had formed raid groups and competed to claim them.

Of course, the reason for the end of such competitive structure was simple.

-The shock of RUSH was that big… Basically, this total attack is almost the same as going to capture a criminal. Even though I said it’s not, many users still believe that. Let’s go kill Ha Leeha.

“I’m so annoyed with the letter terror recently. It’s driving me crazy. Do they have so much money? It costs quite a bit to send letters from the Old Continent to the New Continent.

Anyway, it doesn’t make sense for me to do that alone. I’m not swept away by rumors that don’t even sound like internet rumors.”

Leeha grumbled, but Kijung couldn’t tease him.

Kijung, who had been connected to Middle Earth all this time, knew better than anyone that the situation was more serious than it seemed.

-Ah! That’s why I called. The attack is one day away in Middle Earth time. Total attack at the 25-day mark! About 3 hours left in real-time? If you log in and join the total attack, it will clear up the misunderstandings-

“Huh? I can’t log in today. I have to do my rehabilitation therapy. I’ve set a limit on my Middle Earth login time…

“You want to play more Middle Earth? Ha, if you want to ruin your leg again over some nonsense on the internet, be my guest.”

When Leeha hinted at wanting to play Middle Earth, Ram Hwayeon’s nagging sharply cut in.

Kijung could hear it even from the other side of the phone.

-Ah, really…? Then there’s no helping it. Sigh, health comes first. Alright, hyung. I’ll try talking to the people again.

“Right. Tell them that Ha Leeha is currently hospitalized and just whining away.”

Leeha finished the call with Kijung.

He was seething with anger, but the biggest problem was that he had no way to vent it.

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

“No. Just get better quickly and then you can do as much as you want.”

“Can you not talk like a mother? At least for rehabilitation-”

“Still! Are you such a spineless man to be swept away by such baseless rumors?”

“… Sigh. It’s frustrating, just frustrating.”

Leeha sighed as he listened to Ram Hwayeon’s words.

But in terms of feeling suffocated, not only Kijung, whom he had just spoken to, but also Ram Hwayeon beside him, were equally frustrating.

Despite knowing the clear fact that it wasn’t Leeha who disrupted the Rush guild, they couldn’t stop it.

Why do rumors grow tails?

Why don’t rumors disappear?

Leeha’s anger, suspecting another of Chiyou’s tricks, was specific, but Ram Hwayeon’s abstract worries and irritation were also not light.

“Ahem, about that.”

“Hm?”

“I’m going to log in and go too. Hwajung will as well.”

“What? The final total attack?”

“Yes. I’ll go and explain, so you just focus on your rehabilitation and get some good rest.”

“Great! That solves it! I’m currently at Ram Long Group’s hospital! Also- uh, what else should I say?”

“Hmph.”

As Leeha asked excitedly, Ram Hwayeon swiftly turned her head and walked ahead of him.

The words ‘I’m taking care of him. Just say it like that, and everyone will believe it.’ didn’t quite reach Leeha’s ears accurately.

When Leeha quickly finished dinner and entered the rehabilitation room, Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and other users from Middle Earth were heading towards the seventh stronghold of Ma (Demon).

It was a total gathering of users who could step on the New Continent.

The reason for attacking at the 25-day mark of the quest was simple. It was due to the characteristic ‘insurance’ of the users from Middle Earth.

What if this total attack fails?

Naturally, there needed to be a chance for a retry. If a significant number died, it would take 10 days to log back in, and at least 5 days for them to regroup, was the common judgment of the users.

Even if they proceeded like that, there would only be two retry opportunities at the 25-day mark.

“But it doesn’t seem like we will fail.”

“… I’m not confident… I’m afraid we will fail.”

The gathered users were encouraged as they looked around. The raid group of the Rush guild was quite large and strong, but after all, it was just one guild.

However, the number of guilds gathered here now could almost be called a small-scale national war.

The reason users skilled enough to be in the New Continent could gather in such numbers for a national war was simple.

“Of course, I knew RUSH would come, and so would Patriot.”

“Hwangryong too?! Hwangryong came! It’s Pei Wu-nim!”

“I see a lot of Minis guilds too. Wow.”

“Not just Minis… over there, that’s Kraven’s ‘White Whale’ guild.”

“There, with Bantal-nim, those giants are the Shazrashian ‘Titan’ guild.”

Because users worth mentioning from Fibiel, minis, Kraven, Shazrashian had swarmed in like bees.

It was as if the elites from four countries had gathered, so even just the elites alone amounted to a number befitting a national war.

“Whew, almost all the expedition members of the New Continent are here.”

“Of course. With such a total attack, it’s almost like free achievements. Who wouldn’t come?”

“Hmm, I guess so. Unintentionally, Leeha hyung has become a fool.”

Bobae said, and Kijung chuckled at her words.

(To be continued…)
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 The players weren’t just bustling on the ground.

In the air, too, there were many players showing off themselves, either riding on various pets or using fly magic.

They were boasting to each other or pointing and being surprised at someone, but at a certain moment, the surroundings became completely quiet.

A user with the power to silence everyone without a word or action, Alexander, was flying in from the distant sky, shining in golden light.

“It’s Alexander-nim!”

When the users looked up at the sky and cheered, a fast-moving black mass was seen coming from the opposite side of Alexander.

Most of them were seeing it for the first time, but the quick-witted users immediately recognized who it was.

“Over there – that’s Lee Jiwon-nim!”

“Is that the 〈Thundercloud〉 he got this time?!”

“What’s that?! A skill? Or a pet? A spirit?”

Their surprise was understandable. A black cloud harboring lightning!

With a crackling sound, the large cloud naturally approached Bailephus.

『Lee Jiwon.』

“Admit it?”

Raising one eyebrow, Lee Jiwon gave a ‘thumbs up.’

Alexander looked annoyed, but Bailephus laughed heartily.

『Comrade. Will you say something? Humans usually do that kind of thing, don’t they?』

Bailephus stopped laughing and asked Alexander.

Alexander turned his head and looked at the users densely gathered on the ground.

They too were users of at least level 200, but their eyes sparkled when looking at Alexander, which was inevitable.


“Ugh, if he starts with his concept act again, it’s really grounds for a block.”

Alexander crossed his arms for a moment.

Was it because of what Lee Jiwon said beside him? Or did he feel that there was no need to inspire these users?

Alexander did not give a long speech.

Just one word. Barely audible, he raised his spear.

“…… Let’s go.”

And that action was precisely what the users expected from Alexander.

The users’ cheering, resonating through the earth, reached even the stronghold of Ma (Demon) with a distinctly different soil composition.

About 1 km ahead of the slowly advancing users, the land resembling burnt charcoal, the final stronghold of Ma (Demon).

『The Blooming Barren Land』 was waiting for the users.

Perhaps because Bailephus was flying slowly, the users also did not rush their march. They took firm and solid steps at a brisk pace.

Excitement and tension intoxicated their minds.

“This is awesome. I’m looking forward to it.”

“First, start recording – capturing Ha Leeha’s death and uploading it to YouTube will rake in some income, right?”

“Definitely! The video of RUSH being smashed got so many views, didn’t it?”

“Hehe, I’ll be the one to kill Ha Leeha. I’m a sniper, so just wait until he comes into close range, then – bam!?”

That was when the users, who fully believed in the rumors about Leeha, began to freeze around their mouths.

“Hyung. No, that’s not true.”

“Ram Hwajung? Wha-, what?! What are you doing -… Sir!”

The look in Ram Hwajung’s eyes had the effect of making the users, who were about to speak rudely, reverent. His companions hurriedly removed the ice crystals that had formed around his mouth.


The expression of wanting to argue further, the faces wanting to confront someone who had recklessly attacked their guild member, quickly faded away.

Because behind Ram Hwajung stood Ram Hwayeon.

“You’d think a guild like 〈Venice〉 would have some level of information. Looks like I have to reconsider.”

“What do you mean, Ram Hwayeon-nim?”

“Believing unconfirmed information so readily and getting excited about it… That’s why I thought it wouldn’t end well. As a guild from the same Fibiel, I wanted to offer some help, so don’t take it too harshly.”

“It’s not Ha Leeha? You say that, Ram Hwayeon-nim, but you must have seen the video. I have ears too. I’ve heard he goes around almost sniping people? I know he’s exceeded the limits of a musketeer tier.”

The guild master of Venice spoke softly, but with such skills, he was no match for Ram Hwayeon.

“So?”

“Uh, yes?”

“Just because of that one reason, you’re treating Ha Leeha as part of the Demon King’s forces? Because his attack style is the same?”

Ram Hwayeon said this, pointing at the hand of the Venice guild master, holding a ‘one-handed sword.’

If the same attack style was the criterion, there would be more than ten million users like that in Middle Earth.

It wasn’t hard to read the message in Ram Hwayeon’s eyes, ‘If there’s an accident with a sword, should we blame you too?’

“This is different! Ha Leeha is a musketeer! How many musketeers above level 200 do you think there are?”

“Then what about Luger? What about Kidd? They would be sufficient too. No, maybe it’s more reasonable to think it’s Luger.”

“… Ah, that’s right! They’re there too! Together- together? That means…

The Venice guild master tried to argue logically, but words were just spinning in his mouth.

It couldn’t be helped. The rumor they believed in wasn’t based on logic in the first place.

Ram Hwayeon smiled slightly and bent her knees a little.

“I trust you know better than anyone that it’s nonsense. I hope you become a splendid guild master who isn’t swayed by others.”


In front of the polite greeting of a lady, the Venice guild master couldn’t say anything more.

With the ice lumps floating in his hand, and Ram Hwajung’s eyes saying, ‘I’ll kill you if you talk more’, he was silenced.

It wasn’t just them.

The members of Byulcho, along with Pei Wu, hwangryong, oracle Rubini, and the ‘Saint’ Raphaela, the summoner Elmi, and other expedition members from the New Continent, were all defending Leeha.

Every time Leeha’s story came up, they suddenly appeared to take Leeha’s side, presenting rational reasons why it wasn’t him, but the majority reacted similarly to the Venice guild.

Once a prejudice and belief had taken root, it was not easy to shake it.

Especially when they couldn’t answer the question, “Then why isn’t Ha Leeha here?”

No matter what they said, it seemed like an excuse, so it was impossible to change their minds.

『What is this…?』

Bailephus, who was floating in the air without a single flap of his wings, stopped moving at that moment.

About 300 meters away from the Blooming Barren Land, the Ancient Gold Dragon leading the users’ total attack did not move any further.

Most users raised their heads to look at Alexander and Bailephus.

Why did they suddenly stop? Even amidst the murmuring noise, Bailephus showed no response.

“What’s the matter, comrade?”

『… Something…』

“Hm?”

『There’s something.』

“It’s the Demon King’s stronghold, isn’t it obvious?”

『That’s not what I mean, comrade.』 Alexander spoke lightly, but Bailephus was full of tension.

Was it because it was the first time Alexander had seen Bailephus this tense since they became partners? Alexander’s expression turned serious in an instant.

“What do you mean by ‘something’?”

『… A huge demon aura, no, not just that, but something more alien is there.』

“A huge demon aura? Bluebeard? What do you mean by different?”

『It’s not a demon. It’s similar in size to a demon, but what else is there…』

Suddenly, Bailephus turned his head swiftly.

His long neck bent toward the ground, causing the users to exclaim in surprise, but there was one who was not startled.

Bailephus was looking for her.

『Rubini.』

“Yes, dragon-nim.”

『Can you create a map?』

Oracle Rubini, a seer, was directly named by the Ancient Dragon. Users were startled to hear her name, their eyes covered with strange veils.

“Was it Doctor Doom this woman all along?!”

“My God- this is-”

The users quickly scattered from around her.

Doctor Doom, the seer. For those not from Minis, countless had died during the national war due to her predictions.

“How wide should the range be?”

『As wide as possible. Make it the widest radius you can manage.』

“Understood.”

Rubini immediately began casting her skill.

The other users were filled with bewilderment and confusion, but the original New Continent expedition members could not hide their shock.

A request and caution from an Ancient Dragon?

Even during their voyage to the New Continent, they had never taken such precautions!

『Area Mapping: Mana Pool Charging』

Whoosh-!

In front of Rubini, a hologram map with red lights was created.

It was definitely the same skill used during the voyage to the New Continent. However, as the name ‘Mana Pool Charging’ suggests, Rubini had poured all her mana into it.

In terms of ‘size’ and ‘precision’, it was no exaggeration to say it was a different skill.

“Is this – are all these dots monsters?”

The map, enlarged like a cinema screen, was densely dotted with points.

The users gulped, realizing that each dot represented a monster, but Bailephus’s expression twisted in concern.

『How far does this extend?』

“Phew, this range is about 5km.”

“Crazy!”

“Five kilometers!”

“!%%$, that’s insane!”

Amidst the noisy reactions, Alexander’s voice rang out, unusually tense.

“Could it be… it’s not within this range.”

『That’s correct.』

“That’s crazy. Weren’t the Demon King’s strongholds just slightly larger than regular raid dungeons until now?”

Lee Jiwon, sitting on the Thundercloud, scratched his head.

He instantly understood that something making Bailephus tense was not within the 5km radius.

In other words, something outside this 5km range was making Bailephus tense.

“Do you think it’s dangerous even with our strength? With our strength as the guardians of virtue and executors of justice?”

Alexander gripped his spear tightly.

『…”』

Bailephus didn’t respond.

The users on the ground, looking at Rubini’s map, were lost in various thoughts. They didn’t even pay attention to the conversation between Alexander and Bailephus.

They were busy simulating where to enter, how to conquer, and how to efficiently clear this place.

“Hah, is the Golden lizard admitting he’s a weakling? So, the story about killing a mystical creature was a lie, right?”

“Shut up, Lee Jiwon. It’s true that we fought with a mystical creature. We just didn’t kill it.”

“Keke! That’s exactly what I call being weak! No counterargument!”

Lee Jiwon was pleased to be on the same level as Alexander, able to say such things in his ear.

Alexander’s expression suddenly distorted, obviously bothered by Lee Jiwon’s incessant chatter.

Alexander’s overreaction was undoubtedly influenced by Bailephus’s silence.

“What does killing a mystical creature mean to someone like you!”

Provoked by his response, Lee Jiwon was laughing.

But it wasn’t just because he enjoyed seeing Alexander’s reaction. Lee Jiwon was happy to answer Alexander’s question.

It was also a moment for him to confirm that he had accomplished something Alexander had not yet done.

“I know.”

“Hm? What do you know-”

“What do you think I did to get this Thundercloud? What level do you think I am? Kyakya! Those in serious mode should just stay home!”

Lee Jiwon cut off Alexander’s words and raised his black sword high.

When the users, who had been examining the map, turned their eyes towards him, Lee Jiwon’s Thundercloud started to move.

“We’re going, Gazaazaaa!”

“Wait! Lee Jiwon!”

Although Alexander shouted, Lee Jiwon did not stop.

Bailephus, too, was solemnly gazing at the distant land, not paying attention to Lee Jiwon.

(To be continued…)
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 “Ah, ah, Lee Jiwon-nim is going! Let’s hurry!”

“We’ll miss the achievements if we’re late! We need to catch at least one monster to earn our own!”

The users were divided. There were the cautious ones, observing the map, Alexander, and Bailephus, and the radicals, who were following Lee Jiwon.

Their numbers were almost equal.

Most of the New Continent expedition members, needless to say, were cautious.

Because the users who knew the power of the Gold Dragon best would not be the first to advance.

“Uraaaai! This is why I like Lee Jiwon! Burn, 〈Flame Qi〉!”

“〈Titan〉 formation! It’s time to show the power of the Giant race!”

However, some, like Pyro, Bantal, and the Amunsan triplets, who joined the radicals, were chasing after Lee Jiwon, adding fuel to the radical users’ momentum.

Roarrrrr!

Monsters were emerging from the Blooming Barren Land. The users’ cheers and skill effects flickered brightly.

“Ah, Alexander-nim?! Bailephus-nim! Aren’t you going in? It’s not good to split the gathered users!”

“That’s right! Since we can’t pull those guys back! We should quickly go in and join forces…!”

Kijung and Bobae ran up and shouted, but Bailephus did not speak. Alexander, alone, would not move in such a situation.

“… I stand with my comrade’s decision.”

As Alexander finished speaking, thunder roared.

From the black cloud that Lee Jiwon was riding on, similarly dark lightning spread here and there.

‘Lee Jiwon, unbeatable in a 1-on-1 situation-’

‘-Did he also get an item advantageous in a 1-vs-many situation?’

Whooosh!


Even after about 30 minutes since entering the Blooming Barren Land, the situation was stable.

The cheers of the users who had advanced far ahead were still encouraging.

Even though the skill effects had weakened due to the distance, it seemed like there were constant flashes everywhere.

『What?!』

“What’s wrong?”

『There’s something. What is this?』

“Does my knowledge not help?”

Alexander spoke with a hint of disappointment, but Bailephus just nodded, as if there was no other choice.

『Rubini. Anything on the map?』

“There’s nothing unusual so far.”

Rubini looked up at the map.

Other users could also clearly see in the map.

The fierce momentum of the users advancing into the Blooming Barren Land!

Each one appeared only as a small dot, yet the scenes of battle seemed to be vividly depicted.

『Just now, there was definitely something… some different aura.』

When Bailephus tilted his head, a peculiar point appeared on the map for the first time.

“Huh? This- This one at the front was Lee Jiwon-nim, right? The black dot had a white dot on it.”

“Yes. Lee Jiwon-nim was on the Thundercloud, but-”

“… The Thundercloud has disappeared. The black dot is gone.”

As the users surrounding the map began to voice their concerns, they had already significantly advanced into the Blooming Barren Land.


In a situation where the advancing users could no longer be seen with the naked eye, white dots on the map began to disappear one by one.

“Monsters! The monsters suddenly appeared!”

“Wow! What’s this huge dot?!”

“We’re surrounded!”

Had these monsters not been detected by Rubini’s map?

The users looked at the map with expressions of disbelief, but the situation remained unchanged.

Among the monster markers, there was one enormously large dot. The number of smaller dots was too numerous to count.

All of them suddenly surrounded and rushed towards the users.

It was natural for panic to occur in various places.

After the Thundercloud’s mark disappeared, the users could no longer distinguish which dot was Lee Jiwon.

Had something that made the Thundercloud vanish also killed Lee Jiwon? Or had the Thundercloud disappeared because Lee Jiwon died? Did the disappearance of the Thundercloud summon the monsters? How did they manage to make it disappear from Rubini’s map?!

“What’s happening…? What’s that big dot?”

“Ha Leeha… sniped him. Lee Jiwon! And then summoned the monsters at the same time-”

“That’s impossible! How could that be possible?! Not even Bluebeard could-”

“No, that’s, ha, Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha-”

In this uncertainty, where nothing could be confirmed, the users watching the map were dominated by fear.

Fear naturally narrows down its target.

The users, engulfed in fear, focused on the only known subject, Ha Leeha.

“Just one word. Die.”

“That’s what I’m saying! I’ve been saying this all along, Ha Leeha is not that kind of person!”


“Le, Ram Hwayeon-ssi is right! I don’t know what means Leeha hyung used, but he and Lee Jiwon-nim are like brothers!”

Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Kijung raised their voices to quell the disturbance, but the commotion didn’t subside.

Alexander, too, seemed determined to keep quiet until Bailephus responded.

Another ranker stepped forward.

The sound came from a higher position than Alexander on top of Bailephus.

Myeol Shi Ding————!

Quiet down———!

The roaring lion’s roar echoed throughout the Blooming Barren Land.

The users covered their ears but turned their heads towards the source of the shout.

Floating in mid-air with a levitation skill and shouting was none other than Pei Wu.

“Forgive my rudeness. But Ha Leeha is not that kind of person. Anyone who slanders him further… I will deal with them in the name of Hwangryong.”

Pei Wu politely bowed to the users.

After Pei Wu’s lion’s roar, all the users belonging to the cautious group fell silent. Ram Hwayeon snorted but also breathed a sigh of relief.

“Tch, it’s always good to have a loud voice. One shot and it’s done.”

“Yes. Pei Wu. If it wasn’t for him. Blizzard.”

The blue particles gathering around Ram Hwajung dispersed into the air.

Ram Hwayeon looked at Pei Wu and Ram Hwajung alternately with a relieved expression.

Kijung was looking at Pei Wu with a tearful expression.

“Pei Wu-nim…

“Kay, it would have been nice if you had played that role.”

“Kheung, don’t say that, Hyein hyung. Ah! By the way, what’s happening, Rubini-nim?”

“I don’t know. What the Dragon is thinking… But it’s certain it’s not Ha Leeha. Not just because it’s not marked on the map-”

“He’s not in the friend window either. You also have Ha Leeha added as a friend. Right, Ha Leeha is currently in Hong Kong.”

Users who were close to Leeha, including all of Byulcho, gathered around Rubini’s map.

“Hong Kong?”

“Yes. He’s not in a situation to log in. I can guarantee that. It’s not Ha Leeha over there.”

Ram Hwayeon looked at Rubini, flaunting her connection with Leeha.

Rubini quietly nodded. Although she could hide her expressions since she didn’t reveal her eyes, a fleeting emotion of regret was sufficiently conveyed to Ram Hwayeon.

“The white dots are disappearing faster!”

“What’s going on?!”

As the monsters’ encirclement tightened, the white dots disappeared more rapidly.

What could the users here do? Even if they ran there right now, all the white dots would have vanished before they arrived.

While other users could only worry, there was one person who could act.

Pushing through Kijung and Bobae was Hyein, who gripped her staff tightly.

“Bailephus-nim! I don’t know what’s inside, but what if I go in to rescue?”

『Sage. But it’s impossible. I cannot guarantee your safety. That giant monster is definitely…』

“Whatever it is, doesn’t matter, I’m not behind in casting speed! If you give me your strongest shield-”

『Shield.』

Bailephus alternated between looking at the distant land where the users were likely fighting and Rubini’s map.

The casting was quick.

『It won’t be easy. 〈Absolute Protection〉』

“Thank you. Even if I can save one person… Everyone clear this area! Confirm coordinates! 〈Teleport〉!”

Swoosh-!

Hyein’s figure vanished.

Where he reappeared could be identified by the remaining users because almost all the white dots had disappeared from Rubini’s map. Suddenly, a new white dot appeared, drawing the attention of nearby users.

As users began to gather near the presumed location of Hyein, several of them disappeared.

They couldn’t even move a few tens of meters.

When a few white dots had gathered near Hyein, a purplish light flashed beside Rubini’s map.

“Kahak… Haa. How are we supposed to catch that…

“Heal- heal me! Heeeal!”

“Demons! There are demons! Bigger than a dragon…!”

“Damn it! Where are these attacks coming from? What is that monster-like thing-”

The users gasped for air.

However, they couldn’t obtain any immediate information. Healers hurriedly attached themselves to the users and began treatment.

“Hyein hyung? What’s the situation? Demons, you say?”

“I don’t know… Something huge… a massive monster. But there was something stranger.”

“What?”

“The same attack as Ha Leeha.”

It took less than three minutes for Hyein to vanish and return.

What had he seen and experienced in that brief time? As Kijung swallowed nervously beside him, Rubini spoke quietly.

“There’s only one white dot left. Everyone else has been annihilated.”

The hologram map, as large as a cinema screen, showed only one flickering white dot. The monster markers surrounding it were too numerous to count, easily over a thousand.

It was like a national war, with the sheer number of users gathered.

Divided into cautious and radical groups, the users who had charged in still accounted for nearly half.

That was a considerable number.

The disappearance of such an enormous number meant something significant.

『Annihilation』

The users had yet to experience the feeling of defeat. It was difficult to accept the situation.

“Uh…? The last white dot is moving somewhere?”

“What, what? Who is that?”

“It’s fast!”

At that moment, the last flickering white dot began to move.

At a speed unmanageable by ordinary users, the white dot quickly disappeared beyond the map’s edge.

The giant monster marker and several other smaller markers chased after the white dot, but the white dot was slightly faster.

“So, that dot is… in a situation that can be considered annihilation.

Considering the ratio of users who had charged in, one person was barely 0.1%.

It wasn’t hard to guess who the 0.1% user capable of moving in the current situation was.

『Lee Jiwon. Where are you going?』 Bailephus also recognized him. The surviving Lee Jiwon was moving fast towards the map’s edge, then circling around and coming back down.

There were quite a few monsters in the direction Lee Jiwon was heading, but they were not enough to stop him.

“Even in that situation… he’s still fighting. Alone!”

“Crazy, how many is he killing? He doesn’t even have the Thundercloud anymore.”

“He’s fast too. Amazing. It gives me chills.”

The white dot, erasing the monster markers, moved swiftly.

Its destination was this very place where the users were now watching the map.

The users, whose thoughts had been frozen, had no choice but to gather their spirits.

The effort of Lee Jiwon, struggling alone, was being projected in their minds. Could they just stand here, staring at the map dumbfounded?

At least among the users who made it to the New Continent, there were no fools like that.

“All healers, prepare to heal—

“Prepare mana infusions as well!”

“Quickly, quickly! Lee Jiwon-nim is about to arrive!”

“Tankers, line up! Keep in mind the possibility of monsters following us here!”

About 15 minutes after the cautious group users began to move busily, Lee Jiwon was approaching from afar.

“Haa… Haa…

“Lee Jiwon… nim…

“Quickly, heal-”

Lee Jiwon collapsed just like that.

(To be continued…)
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It was inevitable that he would collapse.

He had both arms and his left leg, but his right leg was missing.

As he fell, blood poured out like a waterfall from beneath his right hip, which had been torn off like a chicken leg.

『〈Great Heal〉』

“Heal! Quickly, put everything into it! 〈Hemostasis〉!”

“〈Recovery〉!”

Not only Bailephus but also the healer users rushed to save him.

If Lee Jiwon died here, it meant a confirmed loss of ten days.

Even if the wound was beyond treatment, they needed to confirm what Lee Jiwon ‘saw’ and ‘who he fought with’ before confirming his death.

“Lee Jiwon. What did you see?”

Alexander came down from Bailephus and spoke to Lee Jiwon. Lee Jiwon’s face, undergoing treatment, was completely distorted.

He too must have been experiencing a significant part of the pain of his right leg being violently torn off, as if it were real.

It was natural that he couldn’t properly respond to Alexander’s question.

“So, is it really Ha Leeha there?”

“No, or is it Luger? If it’s such a brute attack-”

When the users gathered around Lee Jiwon murmured, his eyes finally opened.

“No, hoo, no.”

Despite receiving a tremendous amount of healing, Lee Jiwon bit his lower lip so hard that it bled, trying to wake up his consciousness. His vision was still more than half dark, but he could see the faces of the surrounding users.

“It’s not Ha Leeha or Luger. Inside there… there’s something worse, ‘things’ worse than that.”

『More than one?』


“Huh, huhu, Golden lizard! Pretending not to know, right?! You knew what was inside-”

『No. I couldn’t be sure. I haven’t seen them before either.』

Bailephus closed his eyes for a moment and then opened them again, asking Lee Jiwon.

『What about the big one?』

“Damn it! I’m over level 300! Having to be a scout even after reaching level 300!”

Lee Jiwon, feeling incredibly wronged, thumped the ground while lying down.

The fact that he was no longer using his usual coarse language showed how much of an impact the situation had on him.

But he was also a user who longed to clear the quest.

Hiding what he saw would bring him no particular benefit.

“I don’t know its name. It’s about 30 meters tall, and even longer than that. It looked similar to a dragon but had no wings. It didn’t seem like it could fly with magic either. It’s like a ‘Tyrannosaurus’ from a Jurassic movie, but about ten times bigger.”

“The height is thirty meters, not the length?”

“An adult dragon’s total ‘length’ with its tail is barely thirty meters!”

A standing height of 30 meters, and a length surpassing that.

The users imagined the approximate proportions of a Tyrannosaurus, visualizing a monster much larger than a dragon.

The users were shocked at Lee Jiwon’s words. They hadn’t seen a thirty-meter Tyrannosaurus yet, but they knew how it moved.

Hadn’t they experienced the ‘speed’ of that creature on Rubini’s map?

“So, the thing that was moving so fast inside the map-”

“A thirty-meter body… moving fast enough to catch and capture Lee Jiwon?”

“How are we supposed to catch that?”

“And there’s something else, more ‘things’ than that…”


Shock brought silence.

Kijung and the members of Byulcho could only swallow their saliva.

Only one person here could extract information from Bailephus.

“Comrade. Do you know what Lee Jiwon is talking about?”

『I have encountered it once.』

“You’ve encountered it? But in my memory-”

Alexander was not with him at that time. That guy…

Bailephus snorted lightly, and the breath caught fire, burning the air.

It seemed like he was trying to burn away the chaotic emotions mixed with worry and anger with his breath, and only after exhaling did he continue speaking.

“He could be considered the left arm of Le. The second most cherished by him is the dinosaur, ‘Toon’.”

In the barren land where nothing grows, there it was.

The name of Toon, the second henchman of Bluebeard, appeared for the first time.

It was three days later, in Middle Earth’s time, when Leeha heard this name.

“Toon? Is that its name?”

“Yeah. Lee Jiwon-nim just barely survived. I thought I was going to die; I was so nervous… Ah! Lee Jiwon-nim also reached max level – no, not max level. Over 300 levels. That Brain Cloud, it’s incredible, I wish ajussi could have seen it.”

Kijung enthusiastically recounted the day’s events in front of Leeha, but other words did not reach him.

The failures of Lee Jiwon and many other users did not impact him as much.

Right now, what was important to him was the existence of Toon.

“‘Arcane Sniper’ was not the only one there…? No, but does Arcane Sniper always stay there? Whether it’s Mr. Brown or Miss Elizabeth… At this point, it might as well be the entire Demon King’s army. Is Arcane Sniper under Bluebeard’s command?”

When exactly did he hear that Luger had died?


He had never heard the exact location of death, but if Arcane Sniper is not one to move around at random, then Luger must have also died in the ‘Barren Land of Blooming Flames’.

“It’s been so long since then! And Kidd… he’s just been sticking to the academy lately, but I can tell just by looking.”

There’s no reason for a user like Kidd to keep sticking to the academy. Leeha knew this better. Therefore, the reason Kidd is at the academy now is likely because he encountered Arcane Sniper. And Kidd probably knows where Luger died.

Naturally, Leeha would have gone there while he was away.

“Luger was there when he died, and Kidd was there when he… I’m not sure exactly when. He was also there a few days ago? Is Arcane Sniper a fixture?”

‘Arcane Sniper’ should have some special mission, right? Why only stay there?

Leeha tilted his head in thought.

“What are you thinking so hard about?”

“Huh? Oh, no. That Toon, it’s over 30 meters tall, right? Then it must be easy to hit, right? If it’s a Tyrannosaurus, it must have a big head too.”

“… Wow… Hyung, did you just gain a little respect for me? Did you just think about catching it after hearing my story?”

Leeha had blurted out whatever came to his mind, but Kijung took it seriously.

Seeing Kijung’s reaction, Leeha was surprised himself.

“Well, no – I mean, yeah.”

“Anyway, but if Alexander and Bailephus-nim go, maybe it’ll be possible? Bailephus-nim said that Toon hasn’t fully recovered its strength yet. But still, inside there are Armored-High Trolls? All kinds of big monsters just completely covering the place-”

“What? What did you say?”

“Why are you so surprised?”

Leeha was startled, and Kijung flinched in response. Leeha’s expression was changing every second.

The difference between other demonic origins and that place.

That is, the reason why Arcane Sniper had to be there.

‘That’s right… That’s why. To protect Toon while it recovers its strength.’

Not only the last sequence in the quest, but also the seventh in terms of the content of the demonic origins.

Leeha realized why it showed a different level than other places.

It was because of Bluebeard’s henchman, who had not yet fully recovered its strength.

“So, what are you going to do?”

“What can I do? First, we’ll each gather information until the users reconnect, then we’ll match up a date. Maybe we’ll proceed in as early as 7 days. What about you?”

“I don’t know… I have to do what I have to do now.”

“What do you have to do?”

“Sigh. That’s the thing. I just keep sighing. Dealing with these spirit creatures…”

Leeha was too exhausted to explain any further.

Meeting Kijung now was also because he had filled his bag with fertile soil from the jade-green mountain where paleo was, and made time to come.

“Will you participate in the next battle?”

“I want to… but honestly, I don’t know.”

Obtaining the fruit of the World Tree was a top priority for Leeha.

Above all, how was he supposed to deal with the seventh demonic source teeming with creatures like Toon and Arcane Sniper?

Leeha thought that even if he stepped in, it would be like adding a grain of sand to a desert.

“Even with Lee Jiwon stepping in, it’s not enough. Things inside are similar but somewhat different, and explaining this has helped the situation a bit. But still, it’s certain if ajussi steps in.”

“I know. Thanks anyway, Kijung-ssi.”

“Sure. Let’s meet up in Seoul once your rehabilitation is done.”

Leeha lightly patted Kijung on the shoulder.

Kijung smiled and immediately activated the modification sphere. After Kijung disappeared, Leeha sighed deeply as if the ground was sinking.

‘Once I get the fruit of the World Tree, it’s a growth accelerator. Making Blaugrunn into adult class is more urgent.’

Now, it’s about making choices and focusing.

He was quite frustrated by the rumors but not overreacting, naturally reducing them.

‘Should I give up the common quest then? Hmm, that’s risky too.’

Leeha sighed again. Just thinking won’t change the situation.

Quickly obtaining the World Tree’s fruit to make Blaugrunn adult class, then contributing to the common quest! That was the most logical and efficient plan, he thought, before activating the modification sphere.

“Here, here, high-quality soil has arrived! Noeannen-nim, how is this?”

“… Not bad. I didn’t know such soil still existed in this land.”

“Of course, of course! Right below the jade-colored mountain, where the dogs gather. Perhaps because of the Paleos’ dung as fertilizer, the soil is strangely fertile – ah, I hope I’m not offending by saying this.”

“No. It’s only natural that good fertilizer enriches the soil.”

A man more muscular than a giant held a handful of soil, smiling contentedly.

Leeha found the unbalanced sight somewhat funny but couldn’t laugh.

‘It’s similar to the mermaid situation. Once a form is established, as in the spiritual realm, it’s impossible to know everything about the physical realm.’

All the water spirits existing in the water couldn’t locate the new continent. Once born as mermaids, they had to follow the rules of the physical realm.

Therefore, already formed beings like Noeannen or Celestine couldn’t know everything.

In matters of soil, wind, Leeha knew more, and there were parts unknown to them.

‘It seems like familiarity rises through various strategies… But it’s slow. Too slow.’

How long would it take to get the fruit of the World Tree at this rate?

Leeha barely managed to suppress his impatience. At least one thing was certain. Familiarity with spirits didn’t come just by talking to them or giving them something beneficial.

Leeha realized that he needed to help them ‘achieve their purpose’.

‘With the mermaids, restoring the sewage treatment was their goal, and I raised familiarity by helping with that. Here, I need to do something that helps make the World Tree healthier.’

Lake water full of minerals, fertile soil, what next?

‘Something to speed up photosynthesis? Gather solar energy – no, that might burn the tree. Ugh, I’m not a gardener! What do I know about plants!’

As Leeha naturally sat on a branch of the World Tree, Celestine approached him.

He wanted to rest here, but he couldn’t because the highest class wind spirit, silen, was annoyingly hovering around him.

(To be continued…)
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 “It seems that dragon isn’t coming this time? The one like a fly around Bahamut.”

“Um… The color of the bronze dragon is turquoise, but comparing it to a fly is a bit…”

“If we could find out where Bahamut is, sylphi-nim would praise you. Don’t you know?”

“Me, of course I don’t. How would I know the location of the great villain Bahamut?”

This was precisely a strategy for life.

The business-like smile naturally on Leeha’s face.

Celestine, having heard the answer he wanted, wore a very pleased expression.

“Isn’t there anything fun happening outside?”

“Fun things…

Leeha quickly racked his brain. Surely, fun things involved fighting and brawling!

But talking about the users’ stories, the spirits showed disinterest, making this request particularly challenging for Leeha.

‘I talked about Hwahong last time, and they somewhat listened to the story of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, but still, it’s like hearing about a foreign country – um, something interesting-‘

Suddenly, an interesting story popped into Leeha’s head. It was something that happened just a few days ago, not far from here.

“If there’s nothing, then never mind-”

“There is! There is something!”

Leeha shouted so loudly that Noeannen, who was far away, also turned his head towards him.

To shake off the awkward feeling, Leeha quickly continued.

“It happened recently. In a place called ‘Barren Land of Blooming Flames’, humans swarmed in droves. There were so many monsters, and just when the users were charging, a dinosaur about 100 meters tall-”

Leeha couldn’t finish his sentence.

Swoooosh—————-!


With a tremendous sound of a gust, noeannen moved swiftly towards him.

“-Woah?! Noeannen-nim, what-”

“Is what you’re saying true, right now? ‘Barren Land of Blooming Flames’! Toon is there? Toon has awakened?!”

“That’s impossible! Noeannen! Toon?! Did he just say Toon right now?”

Noeannen’s eyes widened as if they were about to pop out.

Hearing the name Toon, Celestine stood up abruptly from his seat.

Still sitting on a tree branch, Leeha found himself suddenly surrounded by the two towering figures.

“… Yes, Toon… Whether he has awakened or not, I’m not sure, but he was definitely there-”

“He should still be sleeping. It’s impossible that he’s regained his strength already. Celestine! Any movement from Le-”

“The Sylphs haven’t reported anything. I’ve placed them all around here, so it should be certain.”

Noeannen and Celestine rapidly exchanged words. Leeha chimed in where he could, sensing an opportunity in their conversation.

After spending several days here, for the first time, they were showing a ‘Middle Earth-like’ reaction.

Any Middle Earth user would naturally realize that this was a moment not to be missed.

“It was said that he hasn’t fully regained his strength yet.”

“Where did you hear that?”

“From a gold dragon. It must be true because it came from an ancient-class gold dragon who has encountered Toon before.”

“He’s awakened but hasn’t regained his strength yet…

“Someone must have awakened him. Someone other than Le.”

“But if he’s awakened, it won’t be long before he regains his strength.”

Celestine and Noeannen took turns speaking. Their gazes met and simultaneously turned towards Leeha.


“Did you say humans attacked the ‘Barren Land of Blooming Flames’?”

“Yes, yep! That’s right.”

“We can only hope that not all humans died.”

“Huh?”

Leeha’s question was met with no answer from Noeannen. But it was a statement that needed no reply. In front of Leeha, a hologram screen appeared.

Leeha instinctively knew. Finally, he had the opportunity to obtain the fruit of the World Tree, grasping a thin lifeline.

***

『Nothing Shall Bloom』

Description: “This forest of the World Tree plays a role in preventing the demonic lands from exchanging magical energy. Due to the widespread roots of the World Tree, the magical energies can only exist individually. However… if Toon awakens, the story changes. The moment Toon’s power blooms in the Barren Land, the minions of the Demon King, including Le, will start exchanging magical energies with each other. Then… even the forest of the World Tree won’t be able to stop it. Not only that, all the World Trees…

will be contaminated with magical energy. This will endanger not only the western paleo but also the creatures in the east.”

Noeannen and Celestine were dispatched by the kings of the spirits to protect the forest of the World Tree. Their absolute goal is to protect the forest and prevent the demonic sources from exchanging magical energies with each other!

But if Toon fully regains his power, they will no longer be able to stop him. To preserve the last forest of the World Tree in the new continent,

they must prevent anything from blooming in the 『Barren Land of Blooming Flames』.

Content: Neutralize the dinosaur ‘Toon’ in the 『Barren Land of Blooming Flames』 (Remaining time: 22 days)

Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: Toon regaining all his power before neutralization

If Failed: ?

-Will you accept?

Leeha let out a small groan as he scanned the quest window.

The spirits, who hadn’t given any information about the fruit of the World Tree despite several discussions, had finally revealed their entire purpose.


‘So, that’s it. This forest… It’s here for that purpose! The demonic lands scattered in every direction when I came here…

Already six demonic sources had been cleared by users killing all the monsters. However, there are still many such lands throughout the new continent.

The forest of the World Tree, taking root near the center of the new continent, exists to prevent these lands from exchanging magical energy.

“Neutralization means…

“Preventing him from regaining his power. The best method, of course, is killing.”

“Simply put, our goal is to kill Toon.”

Leeha nodded.

There could be various methods for neutralization.

However, the most certain and fastest method Leeha could take was indeed killing. For a sniper, methods other than sniping are impossible.

“What kind of monster is Toon?”

“Toon is one of Le’s most cherished monsters. Known as a dinosaur. He’s so terrifying that he gets the nickname ‘dragon’ despite not being one. His roar instills fear in the enemy and empowers his allies.”

“It’s not just about boosting morale. When he roars, he saturates the surroundings with dreadful magical energies… Lower-purity spirits can lose their existence with just one roar. Any lesser magic would be extinguished before even getting close.”

Celestine shuddered as she took over from Noeannen.

By the sound of their words, they too had experienced Toon’s power firsthand.

Leeha swallowed nervously, listening to their tense voices.

“Can humans neutralize, no, kill Toon with their power?”

Seeing Noeannen’s urgent expression,

Leeha cautiously opened his mouth.

“If we succeed… What will you give me?”

“Are you seeking a reward for something that’s for the sake of all life on this continent?”

“It’s because I might have to die to ensure the safety of all life on this continent.”

Leeha stood firm, even though Noeannen, much taller than a giant, towered over him.

It was Celestine who joined the standoff between Noeannen and Leeha.

Even without the wind, her long hair fluttered in the air, catching Leeha’s eye.

“You might be asking what you want, right? Ever since you first came here, you’ve been interested in the fruit of the World Tree… Then I can give you one.”

“Celestine!”

“Think about it, noeannen. I was ordered by Silphid-nim to protect the World Tree. To protect it, I’ll give away a fruit without hesitation.”

“But the World Tree from which the fruit is taken

will surely die.”

“If we don’t? The entire forest dies. I’ll have to take all the fruits of the World Tree and return to the realm of spirits. How long do you think it will take to rebuild a forest like this? Would Noah-nim want that?”

“…”

Noeannen crossed his arms.

With every word from Celestine, he was unable to retort.

‘If we take the fruit of the World Tree back to the realm of spirits? What’s different? If they can grow it there, why grow it here?’

Leeha had questions, but this wasn’t the moment to ask.

He kept a firm expression with pursed lips for a moment, then swoosh! The hologram window in front of him changed.

『Nothing Shall Bloom』

Content: Neutralize the dinosaur ‘Toon’ in the 『Barren Land of Blooming Flames』 (Remaining time: 22 days)

Reward: 1 World Tree Fruit

Condition for Failure: Failure to neutralize ‘Toon’ before he regains all his power

If Failed: ?

Will you accept?

“Alright. Give me the fruit of the World Tree.”

『You have successfully negotiated.』

Leeha was a bit startled to see that the reward was only one fruit of the World Tree, even after using his bargaining skill.

‘What were they planning to give me when the reward was a question mark? Just some spirit affinity?! These tricksters! If I hadn’t bargained, they would have just let me struggle for nothing!’

He thought about how the spirits tend to exploit humans, as was the case with taking care of the World Tree’s forest.

Anyway, that was in the past.

Now that the World Tree’s fruit appeared as a reward, Leeha had only one choice.

“I’ll be back.”

“Please do. For the sake of the west and east of this land – no, for all life on this continent and beyond! Toon must be killed.”

Leeha activated the modification sphere, hearing Noeannen’s final words.

“Paytor-ssi!”

“Yes, my lord.”

“Any operational issues?”

“None.”

The place Leeha had come to was Gaza City. Unlike Ram Hwayeon, who meticulously managed and prospered the city by interfering in everything, Leeha maintained a hands-off management style.

‘After all, I’m not the type to look at reports and paperwork… I wouldn’t know what to do with it anyway.’

Despite this relaxed approach, the city was running smoothly, thanks to the income it generated.

Without any special efforts to upgrade city facilities or stimulate the market, people came of their own accord.

It was a popular place for mid to low-level users from Minis-Fibiel to pass through on their way to hunting grounds, and just collecting taxes from the money they spent was enough.

“If anything special comes up, I’ll let you know. Please continue as you have been.”

“Understood. Don’t worry.”

Leeha quickly glanced over the weekly income and expenditure report of Gaza City before leaving the city’s inner fortress.

His visit here wasn’t just to see how much money had been made.

『Common Quest: When You Touch the Grass, a Snake Will Appear』

Content: Verify the location of the demonic source (6/7)

Condition for Failure: Failure to verify the demonic source within 100 days (Remaining time: 22 days)

If Failed: ?

『Nothing Shall Bloom』

Content: Neutralize the dinosaur ‘Toon’ in the 『Barren Land of Blooming Flames』 (Remaining time: 22 days)

‘The deadlines are the same. This means… the remaining time for the quest from the Vatican and the quest from the highest-class spirits of the World Tree’s forest is the same.

And what about the location?

The seventh demonic source is precisely the 『Barren Land of Blooming Flames』.

Although the processes and objectives of the two quests differ, the ultimate outcome converges.

‘I don’t know what penalty I’d face if I failed the common quest.’

Other users might not have caught on yet, but Leeha could roughly guess.

(To be continued…)
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 Reflecting on the quest given by the spirits, and their words, the result of failing the penalty was clear.

‘Complete revival of Toon. And… the destruction of the World Tree’s forest, leading to the demonic lands exchanging magical energy.’

With many hints already provided, Leeha could guess what the failure penalty entailed.

If the demonic lands start exchanging magical energy, what happens?

‘The monsters will become stronger, which is a given. If that’s the only consequence, it would be a relatively mild penalty.’

But the possibility of Toon rampaging couldn’t be dismissed.

A giant dinosaur, over 30 meters tall, could lead all sorts of monsters in an onslaught towards the western coast of the new continent.

What if that happens? Could the current level of users stop them? Leeha was skeptical about this, “The Paleos will not leave their tribes… The destruction of human towns and the loss of mana relay towers will be inevitable.”

Meaning, the means to reach the new continent would be lost. At best, they would have to start again from the ‘buoy’ in the middle of the Sea of Dawn.

For regular users, it would take at least 60 days to gather resources from there.

‘Essentially, pioneering the new continent would become much more difficult. Especially if Toon remains alive.’

He must be killed. Thorough preparation is essential, particularly since Toon is not at the first demonic source.

‘Arcane Sniper…’

According to Kijung, there are at least 7 days until the next total assault – time enough to prepare.

‘I have to do it, though.’

Leeha walked towards the Bottleneck forge, whispering to two people.

-Getting hit suddenly makes you want to grow fast, huh?

Even if the message was the same, the responses were bound to differ.

-If you want to die, keep talking.

-I don’t have time for jokes.


To get information about Arcane Sniper?

He would have to ask those who have faced it.

The first person Leeha thought of was Lee Jiwon. Lee Jiwon lost a leg in the first total assault but did not die.

So he was currently logged in without penalty.

But to talk to Lee Jiwon about Arcane Sniper, he’d have to spill everything. Well, the information would be released eventually…

With someone else to talk to first, getting information from Lee Jiwon was not a priority.

-There will be a total assault on the seventh demonic source in 7 days. You’ve heard about the attack three days ago, right?

-Don’t care about idiots doing idiotic things.

-I’m aware. I heard that a monster named Toon caused devastation. It has nothing to do with me.

Leeha smiled at the replies from Luger and Kidd. They only know one side of the story.

Time to prod them a bit to get a reaction.

Solo players like Luger and Kidd, naturally, get information a bit late.

-Why don’t you care? The seventh demonic source, recently attacked and soon to be attacked again… is the 『Barren Land of Blooming Flames』. It wasn’t annihilated by Toon. Toon may have contributed, but what’s the real reason the users were wiped out?

Luger and Kidd didn’t reply.

Thinking of them exercising their right to silence, Leeha laughed.

Keeping quiet? But this keyword will make it hard for them to keep playing dumb.

-Don’t you know? Really? Should I tell you?

It’s because of Arcane Sniper. While you’re messing around, Alexander or Lee Jiwon might become the next Arcane Sniper.

Could Alexander or Lee Jiwon become the next Arcane Sniper?

Leeha didn’t know. But he was aware that this bait was perfect for opening their mouths.


Responses came back immediately.

Leeha laughed, listening to the squawking voices of Luger and Kidd.

And he knew who was in charge in situations like this.

-Quiet! Come to the Bottleneck forge quickly. I’ve activated teleportation. Hanging up.

Soon after, two users appeared near the Bottleneck forge, grumbling.

“What’s this, what’s this? Why are three of us huddled together again, making me anxious!”

Bottleneck emerged from the forge and shouted in greeting, his voice incongruously cheerful.

The trio couldn’t miss the excitement in his voice, but they didn’t look directly at Bottleneck right away.

The three of them meeting again was the first time since they had parted in the underground city of the Gorilla Paleos.

This meant that quite some time had passed.

‘Their items have changed. The color of Luger’s gun barrel… Kidd’s coat feels slightly different than before.’

‘Have they grown again? Those damned guys!’

‘Am I the only one who’s not evolved?’

It was apparent that Luger and Kidd’s item setups had slightly changed.

Even though Leeha had no new items, Luger and Kidd couldn’t imagine that he had wasted his time.

In fact, Leeha had evolved Blaugrunn to Juvenile-class and, along with the ‘Ha Leeha Brigade’, had wiped out one of the demonic sources.

Such a significant (?) event might not have been predicted by Luger or Kidd, but for them, Leeha’s growth was always a certain guess.

“What are you doing here!? Did you three come to our forge just to have a staring contest?”

“Of course not. How have you been?”

“Been well, my foot! I would have been much better if you hadn’t requested those weird items!”


Bottleneck looked at Leeha and snorted.

At the mention of item requests, Kidd and Luger’s ears perked up.

“That… you can tell us about that later.”

Leeha hurriedly tried to stop Bottleneck, but he brushed off Leeha’s hand and started hopping around.

“Are you three making some secret? Anyway, you’re always asking what I made, whether I took any orders, every single day -”

“Who said that, blacksmith Bottleneck!”

“When did I ever!”

Challenged by Bottleneck’s sharp words, Kidd and Luger reacted.

Ah, they thought, trying to feign ignorance, but they couldn’t escape Leeha’s eyes and ears.

“… You guys… did that? Spying on me like that?”

“No? I didn’t! What do I care about what you’re making?”

“I’m a fellow student of Leeha.”

Leeha wore an incredulous expression.

Luger whistling and kicking the ground, Kidd fiddling with his hat… and deliberately avoiding eye contact!

Leeha alternated his gaze between Luger and Kidd, then suddenly turned to Bottleneck.

“Bottleneck, ajussi! Did you tell them everything? You shouldn’t have! There should be something like a duty of confidentiality -”

“Among the Three Musketeers?”

“–Yes?”

In fact, there was no loss even if it became known.

Eventually, whether it was the scope or other weapons, Luger and Kidd were skilled enough to copy or adapt them.

Leeha half-jokingly reproached Bottleneck, trying to extract more information (?), exaggerating his actions.

However, Bottleneck didn’t allow it.

“Master. Should there be secrets among the Three Musketeers? Haven’t you learned anything from Brown, elizabeth, and Browless?”

Despite being much shorter than the Three Musketeers, the dwarf’s presence was fierce. The weight behind his quiet words couldn’t be hidden.

“… No, that’s not what I mean – well, if you put it that way.”

“Hmph! Whatever any of you do, I will tell you everything! So none of you get any other ideas! When you were not around, Browless came by and told me everything! About Brown – and that Elizabeth – ahem!”

Bottleneck suddenly stopped his rant and wiped away a tear.

The three young Musketeers looked at him in astonishment.

Such a rapid change in emotions.

‘I don’t know about Arcane Sniper, but it means they told him they’re still alive and on the side of the Demon King’s army.’

Leeha thought Bottleneck’s overreaction was actually beneficial.

The goal of this meeting was to persuade Luger and Kidd to join the total assault, and now their emotions were likely to be swayed.

“Alright. It’s best to be both friends and rivals, isn’t it? Being just friends or just rivals is different.”

“Of course! Take plenty of bullets with you.”

Leeha glanced between Luger and Kidd, then gestured towards the inside of Bottleneck’s smithy.

“Now that we’re here, let’s talk while we pick up some ammo. I have a suggestion to make as a member of the Three Musketeers.”

Luger and Kidd didn’t express their usual dissatisfaction.

Watching them nod slightly, Leeha thought they might already be anticipating what he was going to say.

Conversely, it also meant they already knew how much he knew and had thought about.

“Arcane Sniper and Toon… I heard that Lee Jiwon became an amputee.”

“Even if Alexander and the dragon join us, it would be impossible to conquer them.”

Without saying much, Leeha acknowledged their prior engagement with Arcane Sniper.

They didn’t go into detail about the battle or the situation, but their current conversation was an implicit acknowledgment of their encounter with Arcane Sniper.

“Is Arcane Sniper that strong? Can’t we take him down if all three of us dive in?”

“‘All three of us’? Luger, how far can you shoot?”

“Me? Well… I think up to about 5 km.”

Luger asked incredulously.

Kidd shook his head, hearing Leeha’s response.

“Assuming your rifle and Arcane Sniper’s rifle are the same, which means the bullet speed of Mr. Brown and yours are equal, the distance from which he first fired was 7 km.”

Seven kilometers.

Leeha’s mind raced.

“To shoot at a distance of 7 km, I’d have to raise the gun barrel. With my current scope, I can’t calculate for that range.”

Even with all his skills and items, Leeha wasn’t confident he could reach 7 km.

It wouldn’t be just sniping within the scope’s range; he’d have to aim at the maximum distance and then raise the gun barrel like shooting a mortar.

Even then, hitting the target was doubtful.

Being just 1 cm too high or low would make the bullet land far from the target.

“I’ve been targeted since then. Continuous fire from a distance of 7 km. At that range, it’s more like predictive shooting. Predictive shooting isn’t even a second apart, but being hit repeatedly is maddening. Even that damn quick shooter couldn’t do that.”

“That damn quick shooter?”

“Ah. That wasn’t about you, Kidd.”

“Watch your language. Consider this a warning.”

“Ah, a warning? Thank you.”

Luger teased Kidd as he looked at him. There was a subtle difference in how they interacted with each other and Leeha.

It was probably due to the wariness shared between those who had encountered Arcane Sniper.

Also, Luger being more talkative than usual was another sign of the danger posed by Arcane Sniper.

“Sigh… So, what if we add another dragon? Not as strong as Bailephus but another one?”

“What nonsense? There’s only one Dragon Knight, that guy. Don’t tell me you’re talking about your hatchling?”

“It might be better than nothing, but it won’t make much difference.”

“…”

There was no way they could know. Leeha watched them for a moment, rubbing his head.

Should he tell them? Or not?

Usually, he would keep it hidden a bit longer, but Bottleneck’s words weighed on him.

Now was a time to use everything they had and combine their strengths. There was no benefit in keeping secrets.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 545

				
Arcane Sniper 545

“It’s not just a hatchling anymore. It can talk and even use a bit of magic.”

“What?”

“What did you say?”

Luger and Kidd’s expressions turned grim. Leeha, trying to calm them down like pacifying angry beasts, gestured with his palms down, saying, “Woah, woah.”

“I’m not just an ordinary user, you know that?”

“Geez – how arrogant -”

“The hatchling has been upgraded.”

“Let’s assume that’s true. Anyway! Let’s analyze our strength first. What do you think if we proceed like that? Two dragons capable of magic. Alexander and Lee Jiwon, Pei Wu, and a considerable number of the new continent expedition members. Plus… us three. Wouldn’t that work?”

It was essentially a proposal for an all-out war.

Luger and Kidd exchanged glances briefly.

It was clear they needed some time to think, especially Kidd.

“I have something to prepare. After that, the headmaster will also go.”

“Headmaster? Headmaster Browless?”

“If the headmaster joins us in the battle along with everyone mentioned…

“It might be possible. When?”

Kidd’s meticulous calculation combined with Luger’s beastly instinct.

Even Luger, who thought victory was impossible even with two dragons and all other forces, quickly decided when Browless’ name was mentioned!

“In about 7 days… still not sure how it will turn out.”

“Alright. Prepare as you see fit. I’m leaving.”


“Luger! Luger!”

Leeha called out to Luger, but he didn’t look back, just swept up the bullets into his bag and left.

Kidd sighed and shook his head.

Although Luger had a reckless personality, dealing with a known character wasn’t a big problem.

“The basic premise is ‘I have to finish my preparations.’ Without that, the headmaster won’t join.”

“Then hurry up and go, why are you sticking around here? Huh?”

Of course, Luger was also aware of Kidd’s character, so the effect was somewhat diminished.

Luger and Kidd quickly gathered their bullets and used teleportation.

Their eagerness to leave, deeming further conversation a waste of time, was something even Leeha had to acknowledge.

‘Their confirmed participation in the battle is a big gain. I should get my bullets too.’

The more people who have faced Arcane Sniper, the better.

It increased the chances of clearing the quest and also improved Leeha’s own survival rate.

‘If it’s Arcane Sniper? In any chaotic situation, he would target users who can harm him first. And those likely to be targeted are ‘those who have already fought him.’

More bluntly put, Leeha had found two people to take hits for him.

“What are you giggling about? A lord shouldn’t be laughing so indecently.”

“If something’s funny, I laugh. Oh! So, how’s the scope coming along?”

Caught by Bottleneck in his mischievous (?) laughter, Leeha quickly composed himself.

“I’ve got the design draft. But… I can’t test it.”

“Because you lack materials? What do you need?”

“Finally, you’re talking like a human! I thought you were going to throw a fit about why I couldn’t make it!”


“Hey, ajussi Bottleneck. I’m not like that. Just tell me what you need, I’ll get it for you.”

“I don’t know the exact name, but I’ll tell you what functions it should have, so take notes.”

Bottleneck then listed several functionalities the material items should possess.

However, with each point, Leeha’s forehead only beaded with more sweat.

Could he find material items with these functions within just 7 days?

“I’m not facing someone who uses Arcane Bullet, but someone with a regular attack range of 7 km…”

“Sigh, but with other shields like Jellypong and including Blaugrunn… As long as they don’t use Arcane Bullet, I should be able to hold out. After all, my current target isn’t Mr. Brown.”

His target wasn’t Arcane Sniper but Toon.

If other users could just distract Brown until Toon was eliminated! That was the strategy Leeha was forming.

It was then that Leeha, who was scratching his head with a pencil, suddenly received a whisper. It wasn’t from the headmaster, the Three Musketeers, or Shin Nara. At least for Leeha, it was the first time receiving a whisper from this person.

Hi there! Even if you add ‘Leeha hyung’ to ‘Ha Leeha’, it’s still just ‘Ha Leeha.’ I acknowledge the sudden chill.

… Lee Jiwon-ssi?

Not deaf, after all! Can we have a quick chat?

‘Lee Jiwon wants to talk to me?’

Leeha’s pupils shifted.

He had been wanting to talk to Lee Jiwon anyway.

Not only had Lee Jiwon encountered Arcane Sniper, but more importantly, he was the only user who had practically fought ‘Toon.’

‘At least among the users currently connected. All others who faced Toon are dead.’

Leeha intuited that he could get valuable information about not only Arcane Sniper but also Toon.

However, about 10 minutes later, after meeting and talking with Lee Jiwon, Leeha was shocked.


The information was so devastating it required a complete revision of his current battle plan.

It was something obvious but not considered obvious.

Another fact that neither Kidd nor Luger knew came from Lee Jiwon’s mouth.

“There are two of them.”

The burden of just three words made Leeha want to give up the quest.

Boom!

The explosion tore through the air, but Blaugrunn, standing beside Leeha, shook his head. A pebble flew up 4.5 km away.

The Brass Golem looked at its feet and tilted its head.

“You missed. I don’t know what you’re thinking, but if you don’t concentrate, it’s hard to hit. You know how many times you’ve missed today, right?”

“Ahem, I know.”

Leeha shook his head.

He knew, but it wasn’t easy to clear his mind.

It had been two days since he heard various stories from Lee Jiwon, but the shock still lingered.

‘Two people. Yes, of course! There had to be two people!’

Both Kidd and Luger reacted similarly, but Leeha had only thought of Brown. He naturally assumed Arcane Sniper was Brown. But was there only one person who joined the Demon King’s Army?

‘Miss Elizabeth! There was another one, right beside Brown!’

It made sense he hadn’t thought of it.

Only Mr. Brown had shown himself to Luger and Kidd.

Lee Jiwon had awakened him to a too-obvious fact.

He described being shot at while ‘almost hidden by the dinosaur – a lucky break’ in a flustered tone, with some incoherent parts, but the gist was clear.

『A flash from the left cliff, then almost simultaneously, another from the right cliff.

When I turned left, the person there had already vanished. I almost mistook it for one person. I followed and confirmed that there were at least two figures.』

‘The fact that Toon was big enough to hide the targets meant they had to show themselves, and to avoid Lee Jiwon’s notice, they quickly took cover.’

It was a fact that no user had caught.

However, this time it was a misjudgment by Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth, given that their opponent was the second-ranked user.

Underestimating Lee Jiwon’s ability, especially in PVP, where his almost superhuman instinctive sense excels, was their biggest mistake.

Appearing, shooting, then taking cover.

Leeha was sure their actions didn’t exceed 2 seconds.

In the midst of the raging battlefield, with Toon rampaging and almost every user dead, they revealed themselves for just 2 seconds.

Yet, even in a near-death state, Lee Jiwon didn’t miss them and followed up to confirm it.

‘At times like this, he’s not just some simple high school girl…’

Leeha admired Lee Jiwon’s quick judgment and physical ability to execute it. However, that was all the admiration he could afford.

Although he had obtained information, the situation hadn’t improved. What good was knowing if you couldn’t prepare for it? If you can’t prepare, it’s as good as not knowing, isn’t it?

“Luger also mentioned rapid fire close to full auto. Maybe it wasn’t rapid fire, but two people firing alternately… If it was a situation like that?”

Luger had been hit but didn’t know exactly how. If it wasn’t rapid fire, but Brown and someone else taking turns firing?

“Both with a 7km range? No, if Elizabeth isn’t a Arcane Sniper, then she might be even closer? It would have been hard to track the angle and sound of the shots during combat. Brown might have deliberately revealed himself to cover for her.”

Kidd had mentioned it too, using dust clouds like smoke screens for close combat, a skill Leeha was aware of.

“Was each of those tactics, just to cover for Elizabeth’s existence? Which attacks were Brown’s and which were Elizabeth’s? If all of it was intentional, then Brown is indeed a type optimized for combat.”

“Damn, if I were there, I might have known a bit more… And what the hell is Toon up to-”

“Pardon?”

“No, nothing. Ah, my head hurts.”

He had anticipated difficulties, but this was beyond the expected level of challenge. He had convinced Luger and Kidd to join, only for Elizabeth to pop up as an unexpected variable!

“Ugh, it’s all doomed, doomed!”

“Did you pick up some spirit language? I can’t understand you.”

“Shh, quiet. Oh, Blaugrunn-ssi, what have you been up to lately?”

“What have I been doing? Just being there. In the lair, doing this and that-”

“Lair!”

“-Yes?”

“Lair! Blaugrunn-ssi, the lair!”

Leeha suddenly felt like dancing with joy. Yes, there was that way! A ray of hope in the seemingly unending darkness. It might not help, but to a drowning man, even a straw is a lifesaver.

“What are you talking about all of a sudden?”

“Pretending not to know?! Gifts! We need to give gifts!”

“Ah…”

Blaugrunn’s face hardened.

Regretting mentioning it, but Leeha’s switch had already been flipped.

“There are many material items there, right? Surely there are, um, um. More material items than regular ones.”

Once the floodgates opened, Leeha’s thoughts raced.

Blaugrunn’s wide eyes were enough evidence.

“What basis do you have for saying that? I-”

“Of course! I remember what Blaugrunn-ssi was like as an Adult-class! You were like a complete scholar! A dragon with curiosity and focused on research would have collected more material items than equipment, right?”

More importantly, Leeha had a rational guess about the materials.

Dragons, depending on their nature and class, collect different items. He had already confirmed this in Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair.

‘Although it’s a bit disappointing he’s not Adult-class yet, considering Blaugrunn’s intellectual demeanor…’

It was doubtful that the current cheeky little guy would turn into a beautiful young man, but his nature was sure.

“Let’s go! Huh?! Gifts! Gifts!”

“Sigh… Alright. A promise is a promise.”

Leeha, gleefully excited, draped his arm over the shorter Blaugrunn’s shoulder, like a man about to pop a bottle of champagne.

(To be continued…)
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“Here it is.”

“Oh, here! Why are there so many books – wait, first, let’s save the location -”

“You can’t just come and go in someone’s house without permission! Only when I tell you -”

“What harsh words between partners? Save, save!”

Blaugrunn made a sullen face, but Leeha lightly ignored him. How could he logically suppress the cheeky brat’s manner of speaking? Simply ignoring him was the best approach!

Leeha had become quite accustomed to handling Blaugrunn, who had matured into a Juvenile-class.

“Definitely different from Bahamut’s lair. And different from Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair too.”

It was natural for each dragon to have a different lair.

Blaugrunn’s lair was set up on a fairly high mountainside and was considerably smaller than the previous two dragons. Perhaps the entire lair was decorated like a human house.

“It must be cramped in your dragon form, right? And why are there so many bookshelves -”

“I preferred living as a human. Humans keep making books, and it’s better to read them in human form. Plus, it’s easier to organize small items.”

A well-worn sofa, a side table for tea or coffee, and the rest were all bookshelves.

The cave was propped up by the bookshelves, so vast they could reach the ceiling, making one wonder if they were supporting the cave itself.

“Organizing? Now that you mention it, you talked about cleaning and organizing before… It’s definitely clean.”

“Right? It’s tidy, isn’t it?”

Blaugrunn looked up at Leeha with sparkling eyes.

What’s with this reaction? Leeha felt puzzled.

‘… OCD?’

Even enjoying having that part scratched?


Thinking back, Blaugrunn always hinted at it. What was the most frequent topic related to his ‘lair’?

Leeha’s mind quickly worked through it.

“As expected of Blaugrunn-ssi. With so many books, it’s not just alphabetical order… Surely organized by topic, and these bookshelves are all meticulously arranged, right? By topic, author’s name-”

“Yes, yes! You’re right! You noticed it right away?”

“Of course. I’m Blaugrunn-ssi’s partner.”

It had to be. Even the royal archives of Fibiel were classified by ‘main theme.’

It was unthinkable that a dragon of such caliber wouldn’t do the same.

But as Leeha nodded, Blaugrunn’s eyes twinkled even more.

How reassuring it must be to have someone acknowledge and share a non-mainstream hobby.

That was true even for a Juvenile-class dragon.

‘Or maybe he had no friends since he was an Adult-class…’

Though Leeha didn’t know Blaugrunn’s exact history, his choice was undoubtedly correct.

They continued to talk about books and some home organizing tips, increasing their camaraderie.

“I had no idea you were such an amazing dragon. The things you’ve collected must be incredible.”

“Heh. Want to see? Yes, let’s go quickly! I’ll show you.”

Blaugrunn tugged at Leeha’s sleeve, oblivious to what he was doing.

How Leeha looked as he was being dragged along, Blaugrunn couldn’t tell.

‘Hehe, still a kid…’

After a short walk past what seemed like a study, a door to another world opened.

“What is this… It’s like the Vatican’s treasury?”


Though much smaller compared to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s or Bahamut’s storages, Leeha was quite satisfied.

No way he’d just neatly organize books!

Blaugrunn had perfectly arranged all the items he had collected.

Leeha looked around the ‘treasure vault.’

Then he noticed an area that seemed like a tooth was missing.

Catching Leeha’s pause, Blaugrunn quickly added,

“That’s the spot from that time.”

“That place from back then?”

“Yes, from when I was at Gaza City.”

“… Ah, right! When you swept away a bunch of Hero-class items-”

“Yes. Over there is where I keep the Hero-class items.”

But still, despite the missing ‘tooth’, there were plenty of items around.

“Blaugrunn-ssi.”

“Yes?”

“We’ve secured at least five items, right?”

“… What? Oh!”

Leeha looked at Blaugrunn with a cunning(?) smile. The Juvenile-class Bronze Dragon then realized his mistake.

Of course, it was already too late.

“And more? How many more can you give me? Where are the material items?”

As Leeha started hopping around the treasure vault, Blaugrunn anxiously followed him, a worried look on his face.


What’s the thing people who like to keep things tidy hate the most?

‘Others tampering with their organized state!’

Blaugrunn was playing a losing game from the start.

The moment he brought Leeha into his lair, the outcome was pretty much decided.

“Wait! Stop! I’ll just tell you what you need!”

It only took 3 minutes for a complete surrender declaration.

Leeha immediately stopped his random item-picking act.

“Really?”

“… Yes, well, um, yes.”

Feeling a sting of conscience for using such tactics on a child, but now wasn’t the time for guilt.

Leeha pulled out a crumpled piece of paper from his bag and handed it to Blaugrunn.

“Items with these functionalities. Can you bring them all?”

It was the list of items Bottleneck had requested.

‘Needing Hero-class grade for material items… If I had to find them myself, it would take months.’

Surely, some items wouldn’t be available. However, Leeha believed that Blaugrunn could do it much more efficiently than if he had to search himself.

“.. You devil. You’re worse than Bluebeard, Leeha-ssi.”

“What’s over there, I wonder?”

“Eek-! Don’t touch!”

As Blaugrunn walked away grumbling, he was completely at the mercy of Leeha’s playful antics(?).

That day, Leeha managed to obtain all seven out of eight materials that Bottleneck had requested – pressuring Blaugrunn to the point of negotiating with his persuasion skills.

“Amazing… all this in one day-”

“Well, I tried. Can we make it work with these?”

“Hmm… No, no. Although the materials are of better quality than I asked for, the most important ‘eye’ is missing.”

“Figures.”

Despite the determination to give Blaugrunn a taste of harsh reality, Leeha regretted that he still couldn’t make the scope.

‘I managed to get all the materials for the precise gears… but still, no luck.’

The last piece, the ‘lens’, was missing.

No matter how good the other materials were, without the lens, the performance improvement of the scope was unattainable.

‘Maybe I should have chosen the Eye of Argos. Now, taking a quest from the Vatican to clear it…

The full-scale attack that Kijung mentioned would start in as early as 7 days.

Even if other users needed a few days to prepare, the second full-scale attack would proceed in about ten days at most.

Even if that time was used efficiently, there was not enough time to receive and clear a quest to step into the Vatican’s treasury.

In the end, there was only one path left for Leeha.

“Looks like the auction house is my only option now. Even if it’s not the Eye of Argos, if a higher-class ‘eye’ than what’s in the current scope appears…

If I could just be sure of the monster that drops such an item, it would be much faster for me to get it myself.

But there’s no way to know.

What kind of monster, other than the usual cyclops, would drop an eye suitable for a lens?

Such information isn’t readily available online, which is why information in Middle Earth is so valuable.

‘Waiting indefinitely… No, it’s not indefinite. Considering the times I need to log out, it’s not that long.’

In the end, Leeha chose to wait at the auction house rather than continue his shooting practice to improve accuracy.

I don’t need two.

Just one Eye of Argos at the auction house, and I can make the scope I want.

With an improved scope, I might even try a 7km-class snipe. Maybe I could even match Mr. Brown in a millimeter-by-millimeter sniping battle.

“Okay, I’ll get the lens and come back!”

“I’ll prepare other things here.”

Leeha left Bottleneck’s smithy and headed towards Aelstock, the capital of Pyubiel.

The largest auction house and the main one linked to all others. If it doesn’t appear here, it’s as good as non-existent.

‘Well, even while waiting, I shouldn’t waste time. Kijung must have mentioned something back then.’

Leeha briefly checked his friends list and sent a whisper to someone. About 5 minutes later, Leeha smiled brightly.

‘At least this went as I expected. Now, even if it’s not the Eye of Argos, just one more lens-type material item and I’m set.’

Leeha sat down next to the auction house.

Refreshing the page and meticulously checking the materials section every 10 minutes wasn’t an easy task.

Thus, he faithfully performed his duty every time he logged in, never showing signs of fatigue.

For Leeha, who had to log out frequently, 10 days passed in a blink.

“Leeha-ssi…”

“Ah, the world really doesn’t go as easily as one hopes.”

Having waited at the capital’s auction house, Shin Nara also looked disheartened beside Leeha.

“You’re not going, right?”

“I’d like to, but… I’m tied up with royal quests for a while. I’ve been proposing to establish a branch of the Sacred Knights in the New Continent. I wanted to align it with this event, but it’s not going smoothly.”

“Oh, that’s a great idea! How are the reactions from the king and nobles?”

“Mostly positive, but one person keeps objecting, so I’m not sure. Sigh.”

“Someone obstructing it would be…”

“Who else? Lo-”

-Leeha, when are you coming? People have gathered quite a bit!

Shin Nara’s sigh and Kijung’s whisper came at the same time.

Leeha could easily guess the two letters that would follow ‘Lo’. Rotzak was interfering even here.

“I really need to go now.”

“Yes. Be careful. If it gets dangerous, teleport right away!”

“Don’t worry. For starters, I have ‘this’.”

Looking at Shin Nara worrying about him, Leeha pointed to his bag. She nodded understandingly.

“Take care, then.”

“See you back in Korea. Sorry we couldn’t properly hang out when you visited in Hong Kong.”

“If you hadn’t said that, I might have decided not to see you again.”

Shin Nara pouted cutely.

Leeha laughed at her antics and activated the teleportation orb. Now, only 12 days remained for both the common quest and the quest to protect the Forest of the World Tree.

Kijung’s estimate was already three days overdue.

Swish!

Moments later, Leeha disappeared. Shin Nara watched the space where he vanished with a worried expression.

“Sigh… Leeha…”

Meanwhile, while Leeha was still talking to Shin Nara, Kidd was wiping sweat at the training grounds of Brownbess Musketeer Academy.

Baumeister watched his disciple, reflecting his own attributes, with pride.

“You’ve finally reached a usable level.”

“Thank you, sir.”

Despite his heavy breathing, Kidd smiled. The new level he had just experienced was exhilarating.

(To be continued…)
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 “Was it today?” he said.

“Yes, it is.”

“Get ready in 15 minutes. We’ll leave together.”

Browless turned away, changing the magazine in his gun.

Kidd, too, could depart at any moment after resupplying ammunition from Gaza City. There was no hurry.

‘If only the commander takes on the role of Arcane Sniper… The success rate of the quest will skyrocket. When the two NPCs compete in strength, the gathered users can quickly eliminate the monsters during the total attack.

‘Without the interference of Arcane Sniper, it would be easy to take down that monster named Toon.’

Kidd anticipated that this total attack would show a marked difference from the last one, considering his improved skills, the somewhat changed attitude of Luger, the items, and with Ha Leeha’s ‘Dragon’ joining the fray.

“Oh, oh, where are you rushing off to?”

“Hmm?”

Just as Kidd was about to activate the crystal ball, someone rushed into the academy. It was a person holding a long staff in one hand and wearing a hooded robe, pulled down low.

Hidden by the hood, their face was hard to discern, but the elaborate patterns on the robe indicated that this was no ordinary figure.

Kidd couldn’t recognize him. Instead, it was Browless who recognized him immediately.

“What brings the Archmage here?”

‘Rotzak…?’

Browless looked at Rotzak with a displeased expression. Kidd stopped the activation of the crystal ball and looked at him too.

Rotzak paid no attention to Kidd.

His eyes, blazing intensely, were fixed solely on Browless.

“To have a conversation with Colonel Browless, I had to come personally. It seems fitting, given your busy schedule.”

“You’re joking too much.”


As Rotzak sneered, Browless bowed his head in a formal manner. It was a roundabout way of saying he expected the same courtesy.

“Hmm… the Academy. It’s been a while since I visited.”

“Lord Rotzak. I’m sorry, but could you please state your business? I’m ‘very’ busy with something – going to the New Continent Erika.”

“How did you-”

“I trust I’m not underestimating the Archmage’s ears. I’ve been aware since thirteen days ago of the incident there and that a revenge mission is planned for today.”

Browless looked somewhat surprised, but for Kidd, this was not shocking.

After all, he was part of the royal court’s magic division, so there would be related users.

For users with magical professions from Fibiel, lotzak would be an NPC close to a mentor, giving them quests or teaching skills.

‘It wouldn’t be strange if he heard it from them… But why appear at this timing?

Rotzak looked around here and there before approaching Browless.

“I believe you understand the implication of my presence despite knowing all this.”

“Do you mean there’s something more urgent?”

“If possible, it seems we should have a slow talk at the palace.”

Rotzak nodded quietly. Browless struggled to maintain his composure.

“If it’s not a long story, how about we discuss it here? I need to lend my strength to the Ma demons’ base in the New Continent-”

“No, no. After all, you’re a retired person, colonel. You don’t need to exert yourself.”

“-Hmm?”

“Isn’t that right? We are now in a position to listen to the active stories of the younger generation and plan macroscopic strategies. How could you still harbor ambitions for active duty? That could eat away at your life, colonel.”

“… I am still active. Still inexperienced. My disciples are even more so. Sending them to such a ‘dangerous’ place would be too much.”

Browless stopped speaking and looked into Rotzak’s eyes.


Rotzak’s gaze flickered for a moment.

‘Are you saying Mr. Brown is there?’

Kidd knew what Browless was trying to say and what he was thinking.

『Mr. Brown is there. When they left the barracks during the Second Human-Demon War, your comrades reported it to you, but you concealed it and manipulated their memories, didn’t you? Above all… there’s a special confidential document with the last words of Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth.

‘Beware of Rotzak.’ I must go there and hear what you did to them.』

Kidd had also completed the Royal Records Office quest. It was natural for Browless to think so.

However, there’s no evidence that he manipulated the memories of companions like Lepanto. To pursue the special confidential documents, he would have to admit he had seen them.

‘But… without evidence, I know I can’t bring it up to the 『Royal Court Mage』.’

Even with leniency, wouldn’t it lead to arrest in the royal underground prison? It could turn into a charge of inciting national insurrection, more than just an insult.

As Kidd looked at Rotzak with these thoughts, lotzak became aware of Kidd.

Rotzak, glancing back and forth between Kidd and Browless, hurriedly opened his mouth.

“So, that’s what I’m saying! I thought Colonel Browless would have the sense to understand.”

“What do you mean?”

“Do you think I came here just for a trivial talk? Let’s go to the palace immediately. It’s a matter of urgency.”

Kidd closely watched Rotzak’s actions. The way he approached Browless, almost forcing him to come along.

Kidd had not visited the palace as often as Leeha, but this behavior was certainly different from the Rotzak he knew.

“If you don’t explain clearly, I won’t go. The total attack is about to start, and I can’t leave my post-”

“Do I need to explicitly state that it’s related to the royal family for you to follow?”

“-The royal family?”

“Cough! Hurry up!”


When Browless didn’t follow, lotzak eventually raised his voice and turned swiftly towards the palace.

His gesture said, ‘No more offers, just follow me.’

“…Colonel, what will you do?”

“No choice. You go ahead. It shouldn’t take more than an hour. Don’t act rashly.”

Browless couldn’t resist any longer. It was one of those times when ‘rank rules.’

“However, I won’t be able to command all the people who have already gathered.”

“That’s true. You, or rather, Leeha and Luger are there, right? Tell them to be careful.”

“Understood.”

Kidd bowed to Browless. The academy’s colonel checked his equipment and headed to the palace.

Kidd also had to hurry with his preparations. The location of Leeha on the friend window had changed to the New Continent.

‘One hour… Can it really be done in just one hour?’

Kidd couldn’t fully trust Rotzak’s words.

What was the reason for coming here at this point? Was there something related to the royal family that Browless needed to discuss?

‘There’s no need for me to ponder why he didn’t send a messenger…’

Kidd firmly pressed down his hat, resolving himself. The course of NPCs couldn’t be arbitrarily influenced by a user.

He had no choice but to move.

Swoosh-!

Kidd’s location changed to the New Continent.

Numerous users were already there, tensely adjusting their armor and weapons.

The second total attack had fewer people than the first.

Many users who had recklessly joined the first attack did not participate this time.

However, no one there could call them cowards.

The users who were present had also observed the brutal massacre happening in the barren lands of Rubini’s map through the map.

“Oh, hyung! Not too late, am I?”

“On a day like this, how could I be late? Just made it.”

“It would have been better if you could have come with us.”

“Heh, it would be comfortable to go with Hyein-ssi, but… I can’t this time.”

Leeha greeted Kijung and Byulcho’s team.

Though the number was less than the first time, there were still many users. Those who had promised to cooperate were gathered in small groups, aligning their strategies.

“Did you receive your rehabilitation treatment well? If you worry too much here and get a nerve pinched again-”

“Don’t worry, Ram Hwayeon-ssi. I came with Heinrich’s permission.”

As the area around Byulcho became noisy, Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and members of the Hwahong guild gathered there. Leeha, like a flower attracting a swarm of butterflies, caused a stir among the users as they started to focus on him.

Their expressions revealed surprise.

“Ha, it’s Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha is here!”

“Ha Leeha? Shouldn’t he be inside?”

“This betrayal-”

“Alright! I’m recording from now on! Anyone spreading serious insults or rumors without evidence will face legal action. If you’re from Korea, in court; if you’re a foreigner, then by the Middle Earth management team. Please watch your words.”

Before they could finish speaking, Leeha shouted first.

Middle Earth is a game with minimal intervention by the administrators. Even if there’s endless slaughter or Player Killing (PK) within the town, there are hardly any penalties.

Would the administrators intervene for something as trivial as these rumors disrupting gameplay?

Most users knew in their minds that the answer was no.

However, after Leeha’s shout, they could only grumble softly or look with suspicion, unable to openly speak.

“Ni hao, Ha Leeha daehyeop. It’s been a while.”

“Ah, Pei Wu-nim. Long time no see.”

Everyone saw Leeha greeting top rankers with a smile, his confident demeanor undeniable.

Could this really be the person affiliated with the Demon King’s Army, or the one who targeted the Rush guild for Byulcho? The one who blew away Lee Jiwon’s thigh?

“You still came even after saying that. Accept that you’re crazy? Oh, accept〜”

“Kik, Lee Jiwon-ssi himself came after surviving a brush with death. I can’t miss out.”

Even having such an informal conversation with the party involved?

Kijung smiled as he watched the atmosphere gradually change around them. Hyein shook his head and chuckled softly.

“See, I told you hyung had to come himself.”

“A person who shines just by being there without doing anything special. I just can’t compete…

While Leeha was half-threatening, half-truthfully dispelling the rumors about himself, existing New Continent expedition members like Rubini, raphaela, elmi, snare, armboost, and others also started to arrive.

Luger and Kidd also kept a certain distance from Leeha.

The three of them pretended not to care about each other but stayed within a certain range.

And finally, from the distant sky, a glint of gold sparkled.

It’s not just the voices of so many users gathered that initiate the attack.

An absolute charismatic presence to lead and command everything.

“It’s Alexander!”

“Okay, prepare for battle! Everyone, get ready for combat!”

“This time, we’re going to wipe out the Demon King’s Army.”

Just the sight of Alexander and Bailephus boosted the morale of the users.

This time there were a few days of preparation. What’s inside, how to attack, and patterns were all thoroughly studied.

Even the mages and healers were seen carrying giant shields, a clear proof of preparation!

Bailephus and Alexander stopped above the heads of the users.

The dust flew around due to the wind pressure, but the users didn’t blink an eye and looked up at him.

“Are you ready?”

Woooaaaahhh!

Instead of responding, the users roared.

Bailephus, as soon as he stopped, continuously cast something. Golden grains kept gathering in front of his face.

Rubini, locking eyes with the dragon, once again gathered all her mana to create the largest map possible.

Standing by her side was a man who had once experienced a nightmare in this place, ron, the guild master of RUSH.

“Based on Dr. Doom’s map, I’m Ron, tasked with command and control of this total attack. Though inexperienced, I promise to do my best for your safety and an effective strategy.”

Rush! Rush! Rush!

(To be continued…)
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 Ron glanced at Alexander as he finished speaking.

This was also a matter that had been discussed beforehand, so Alexander simply nodded slightly in response.

The users weren’t the same ones who had blindly charged in during the first total attack.

While a very detailed strategy was impossible due to the sheer number of people, the major guilds had already discussed general attack routes and key points to capture.

“Partner.”

『Is it alright if my attack is limited?』

“That’s enough. And aren’t you already casting? I want to see that ‘Arcane Sniper’ too.”

Alexander spoke very softly.

Even Lee Jiwon, who had been attacked, couldn’t fully understand them, but a user with an Ancient-grade dragon as an advisor was different.

They knew what was in the Barren Land of Blooming, why Bailephus was so tense that day, and had a rough idea of the situation.

“A foe not fully grasped even by you… This is much more exciting than when we went to meet Bluebeard.”

Of course, even then, they knew less than what the trio had gathered.

Bailephus didn’t know much more than the basics about Arcane Sniper, so compared to the data collected by the trio, it was almost as if they only knew the name.

『… Understood. Then let’s begin.』

Bailephus, having reconfirmed Alexander’s strong will, cast the skill he had been preparing until now.

『『Complete and Absolute Mana Shell』, 『Enhanced Dragon Scales』』

Shwaaaaa…

The giant dragon’s scales glittered, and a semi-transparent yellow barrier sphere that completely enveloped them was formed.

Alexander raised his spear.

“Let’s go.”


Waaaaaaa———–

As Alexander began to move, ron frantically whispered to various places. The second total attack had officially begun.

Luger had already disappeared, holding the 『Cobalt Blue Python』. The first thing he took out was a desert-colored camouflage cloak.

Kidd mingled with the advancing crowd, all bullets loaded in the 『Crimson Geckos』.

And Leeha?

He took out a sheet of paper folded four times from his bag and checked the checkpoint once again.

‘It was good that I got it from Rubini in advance.’

The person Leeha had whispered to while waiting at the auction house was Rubini.

He thought she could transfer the map she created within a 5km radius onto paper.

Rubini fulfilled Leeha’s request without any compensation, allowing him to set up sufficient sniping points in the early stages of the Barren Land of Blooming.

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi! You’re not asleep, are you? You must respond immediately when called!

Blaugrunn: Really. Do you think of me as a growing teenager or something? I’m a dragon, even though I look like this-

Leeha: Alright, alright. Then let’s go!

Leeha also grabbed the 『Black Bass』, which he had been carrying over his shoulder, firmly.

Click-! A magazine snapped in with a crisp sound.

“Be especially careful of the beast-type aggro!”

“Armored-High Trolls are coming! Damage dealers, maintain your distance well!”

Rooooarrrr——-

Kwaaak! Kwaa-!

Beasts with three wolf heads and eight spider legs on a dog’s body ferociously charged.


Fighting against the instinctive fierce attacks of beast-type monsters, users soon found themselves facing fully armed high-level trolls swinging their weapons.

『Cruel Bash!』

Zwaak-!

The forearm of an Armored-High Troll was gruesomely sliced off.

Kyarat-! It spewed green blood, but by the time it had staggered a few steps, foam began to form at the severed limb, indicating regeneration had already started.

“Damn! It’s regenerating!”

“Wizards, what are you doing?! Cast a curse or something!”

The difficulty in conquering the Barren Land of Blooming, despite lacking clear job distinctions like the users, was exactly this.

The existence of High-Trolls, which already had a healer’s role integrated into their bodies, made combat more complicated.

『Recovery Reduction』!”

“Kyahahaaa-!”

The intelligent monsters in the Barren Land of Blooming didn’t miss the opportunity when the mages focused on the trolls.

“Goblins! Don’t let the space get blocked! Before it’s blocked-”

『Deep Sleep』.”

“-Mages- Right!”

With scrolls in hand, pop pop pop! The small monsters charging towards them fell on the spot.

A warrior user, snoring, lightly finished off the goblin by cutting its throat.

“… Order from Ron-nim! Finish here and then move to the left wing to help!”

“Received!”

The users shouted energetically and concentrated on the battle with the Armored-High Trolls.


It was indeed a difficult battle, but not an impossible one for the well-prepared users.

‘But even during the first total attack, we had advanced this far.’

‘The difference this time is that the huge monster hasn’t appeared yet…

‘It should show up soon. That’s when the real game begins.’

Step by step, the users advanced, unable to relax their vigilance.

They knew well that this battle was not everything.

Strictly speaking, the conquest of the Barren Land of Blooming, the seventh demon stronghold, had hardly even begun.

“I’ll go and help for a moment.”

『Hm.』

Bailephus nodded, and Alexander leaped off his back. The spear in his descending hand sparkled.

“Kyarat? Kuwaaaa-!”

“Human! A sacrifice!”

The Armored-High Trolls, seeing Alexander fall, immediately raised their weapons. They expected him to impale himself on their weapons without any attack, just by the force of his fall!

『High Dive Stab』

But Alexander wouldn’t be caught by such a simple counterattack.

His seemingly effortless spear thrust was enough to split two Armored-High Trolls, even with helmets and armor, in half in an instant.

Gwaaaaaa———

Alexander landed in a bloody battlefield among the trolls.

Before the loud noise ceased, soot-like dust burst up. This excited the users.

“Alexander-nim has come to help!”

“Oooooo! Finish quickly, quickly!”

The attack squads facing the trolls at the front increased their pace.

The fully armed high-level trolls seemed to feel as if they were being attacked from all sides.

“Kyarit?! Kag!”

“Block the front- Block the fro- Kyah!”

“No! Behind, behind, behind- Damn it!”

The power of three attack squads pushing forward from the front, comprising 75 users, and the attacking force of Alexander alone from behind were nearly equal.

『Indeed, a worthy companion of mine.』

Bailephus watched from above and smiled.

Boommmmmm——!

Boommmmmmm——–……!

『Huh?!』

And at that moment, a powerful impact hit the hemisphere surrounding Bailephus.

A long, bell-tower-like rumbling sound cut across the battlefield.

Although mixed with various noises, the sound was loud enough to reach everyone’s ears.

“It’s real… What kind of attack is that!”

“Where’s Ha Leeha? Ha Leeha-?”

“Ha Leeha was back there just a moment ago!”

The users were clearly overpowering the monsters until now, but their expressions turned grim.

The attack on Bailephus was a signal that the ‘real’ battle was about to begin.

『To think such power could come from just two shots… Alexander!』

“Hm. According to plan.”

『Understood.』

Bailephus moved swiftly.

He was in a state of complete and perfect defense with the barrier and enhanced scales, but he couldn’t indefinitely withstand the attacks.

Shwaaaaaa——–!

Even during flight to cause disruption, Bailephus could feel the attacks brushing past his ears.

Despite executing perfect evasive maneuvers, like zigzagging, sudden stops, and accelerations, the sounds of impact, ‘boom’, ‘boom’, were intermittently heard.

『To react to my movements from this distance… But I still have many tricks up my sleeve.』

Predicting the direction of the attacks wasn’t difficult, but Bailephus couldn’t counterattack.

As pre-warned to Alexander, the magic shielded everything inside and outside the barrier, preventing all attacks.

To obtain near-perfect defense, he had to sacrifice the ability to attack!

However, this limitation applied only to ‘attacks’.

Bailephus quickly cast illusion magic.

Another Bailephus appeared in the air, and the real and fake Bailephus split in two directions, widening the distance across the battlefield.

『Caiaaaaaa——-!』

『Caa, caaaa?』——-

The roar of Bailephus’s duplicate was indistinguishable, sending shivers down the spine just by its appearance.

To avoid being detected as unable to attack, Bailephus attempted even more dazzling movements.

And all these movements were being observed by Leeha.

Lying prone at his first sniping point marked on the map given by Rubini.

‘Sure enough, it was like that. If an Ancient-grade gold dragon takes the bait, it’s a relief for us.’ Luring the attention of the users so they wouldn’t have to worry about the unseen ‘Arcane Sniper’.

‘But… Is it really okay for Bailephus to move that far away?’

Leeha, watching the dragon move away, couldn’t shake off his unease.

Bailephus, the most dominant presence here, capable of the most brilliant and powerful attacks, was moving almost to the point of exiting the battlefield. If he was only used as a bait?

Suddenly, a dizzying sensation flashed through Leeha’s mind.

Especially since Kidd’s words echoed in his memory.

‘He said they were adept in battle. That’s right – it was the same during the 12th Human-Demon War! It’s not just about shooting well. If they are skilled in strategy and tactics – Bailephus must return! Huh!’

Leeha had to turn his head away, closing his eyes.

Paaaaaaa-

A red light exploded in the middle of the battlefield.

It was a light of overwhelming intensity, far surpassing Leeha’s soul link. And the users, including Leeha, knew what this light signified.

“Woah?! It’s blinding!”

“Shield your eyes! Be ready to react immediately!”

The light was so intense it penetrated their closed eyelids. The users could feel their hearts pounding.

After the light vanished and the users started to open their eyes one by one, Leeha realized.

‘Yes… As expected. It’s not that Bailephus has drawn away the attention. This is-‘

Bailephus being drawn away from the battlefield was not because Brown and Elizabeth were luring him away.

Rather, it was more likely that Brown and Elizabeth had forced Bailephus out of the battlefield.

“Uh, uhuhuh, uhuhuh!”

“There, there! That’s it!”

As evidence, right in the middle of the battlefield of the Barren Land of Blooming, the flower of the Ma demon had bloomed.

A monster nicknamed a dragon, yet not a dragon, delivering terror.

The dinosaur-like creature ‘Toon’ roared.

『Resisted the ‘Fear’ status effect.』

‘Fear?!’

About 33 meters tall.

Would it feel like a Tyrannosaurus without wings?

But it wasn’t a mediocre appearance. Instead, Leeha found the same fierceness in Toon as in Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

Bluebeard ‘Le’s second-in-command, hence the nickname ‘dinosaur’, was something Leeha could feel.

“It’s fear!”

“Release the upper limit! Quickly!”

“Wrong! The resistance to fear isn’t breaking!”

Leeha, grateful for resisting fear, quickly scanned Toon.

‘Even a Tyrannosaurus in the movies wasn’t more than 10 meters tall.’ Toon, though reminiscent of a Tyrannosaurus, was overwhelmingly massive. Not just in height, but also the length from head to tail was significantly enlarged.

However, one difference was the length of the arms.

Unlike the small forelimbs of a Tyrannosaurus in the movies compared to its body, Toon had arms like a dangling orangutan.

Arms reaching the ground, at least 15 meters long.

Each sharp claw at the fingertips was larger than most users.

(To be continued…)
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 “Ah, aaaaah, aaaaah———!”

Toon, instead of speaking, let out a monstrous scream and charged at the users afflicted with fear. With every step, the ground shook as if the earth itself was trembling.

“Kwaaaai—–!”

“Kyahahaaaaa-”

The Armored-High Trolls also roared like mad.

Their charge, in sync with Toon’s advance towards the users, was enough to evoke terror.

The users still bound by the status effect ‘fear’ couldn’t move a muscle as they watched Toon charging towards them.

“It’s wrong. We shouldn’t have provoked it-”

“We can take it down! Just think of it as a big adult dragon!”

“Healers and tanks, come quickly! We have 30 seconds until the fear effect wears off, just hold the line once!”

The users affected by fear murmured amongst themselves.

Should they abandon them? There were too many to leave behind.

The attack squads had to move forward to save them.

『Super Shield』

『Holy Barrier』

The tanks’ shields were strengthened, and the clerics created holy barriers. Thump, thump, thump! These were the first barricades set up to stop Toon’s advance.

『Aaaaah—————』

Ch-ch-ch-ch-ch-ch… Boom!

And the barricades were utterly shattered.

The users who couldn’t move due to fear, and the tanks, healers, and damage dealers who had advanced to protect them, were all split in half from top to bottom with just one sweep of Toon’s attack.


Ashen corpses were scattered like stones.

“Those arms…

“Whip… like a whip-”

“This is no time to be stunned! The trolls-”

The users tried to regroup hastily, but the trolls’ charge was relentless.

With just one strike, Toon had completely reversed the mood and, after trampling over the ashen corpses of the users, raised its head towards the sky.

Its gaze was fixed on a golden dragon.

『Aaaaah————–!』

『Toon is roaring!』

Bailephus quickly changed direction, but it wasn’t easy to approach Toon due to the constant barrage of attacks. Boom, boom – the arcs of attack were unending.

With the objective of ‘moving towards Toon’, Bailephus’s path was overly simplified, making it an easy target for the sniper Arcane Sniper on this land.

“Run away!”

“Damn it! Retreat first! Regroup and then we’ll reorganize!”

“Teleport-”

“Teleport won’t work! If we pull out now, the quest fails!”

Seeing even Bailephus being thwarted, the morale of the users plummeted.

They had to retreat.

The need to survive and the regret of failing the quest crossed paths. In that moment, a giant shadow loomed over the users.

Lee Jiwon emerged from the dark thunderclouds filled with lightning.

“Toon, you bastard, brings the drama. Did Alexander get scared?”


“What nonsense. I’m going first.”

“That’s more like it! There’s no better chance than now without the sniper! Let’s go, 『Thundercloud』!”

Filled with thoughts of revenge, Lee Jiwon infused mana into the thundercloud.

The light flickered.

The users closed their eyes.

“Whoa?! What’s that!”

Before they could even register the sound of crackling, about twenty Armored-High Trolls were incinerated in an instant.

As the monsters, still not understanding what had happened, turned towards them, Alexander’s shining spear thrust forward.

『Fury Pierce』

The movement was swift, but the impact was profound.

As the air momentarily rippled, large holes were already punctured in the chests of the monsters that had been far away.

“Oh, oooooh!”

“Alexander’s here! Lee Jiwon’s here!”

“Keep going! Don’t run away!”

The efforts of the top two rankers were enough to boost the morale of the users. Notably, they weren’t the only ones present.

『Hwangryong’s Eighteen Forms: Summon Divine Dragon』!”

With a rumble shaking the earth, a yellow dragon appeared in the sky, enough to showcase the presence of the third-ranking player.

“All Golden Dragons, coordinate with Alexander and Lee Jiwon to take down Toon!”

Hii—o!

“I’ll help. 『Ice Grinder』


“Hwahong will prioritize protecting Hwajung-ssi! You don’t need to worry about me!”

Pei Wu and the Golden Dragons, Ram Hwajung directing and assisting from behind, along with Ram Hwayeon and Hwahong.

“We can’t just stand by! All Byulcho members- Wait, Hyein-hyungnim?”

“Huuu, just come to my side. It’s important to have the power to face the Troll legion, but right now, we need to focus everything on Toon. Let’s move with Mass Teleport.”

“Yes! That’s the way!”

“… Kijung is always like this in times like these. Should we also try to get our faces on camera? 『Guided Arrow』!”

And with Kijung, Hyein, Bobae, and others from Byulcho in action, the users once again united to tackle the Barren Land of Blooming Flames.

As Bobae’s guided arrows flew towards Toon, other users spared no effort in using their skills.

A rain of fire from Blaze Shower, Ram Hwajung’s giant ice sawblade, poisoned bolts, energy clusters wrapped in electricity, and even small meteors falling from the sky!

“Kazu-”

『Paahahahai———-!』

Excited Lee Jiwon tried to shout a slogan, but it was drowned out by an even louder roar.

Toon opened its jaws nearly 180 degrees and expelled the energy within.

It wasn’t a roar to produce sound.

“… What’s that, a wide-area dispel?”

“No, all the magic flying at it just now… everything…”

With one move, Toon’s roar had successfully neutralized all the magic that had been hurled at it.

“That’s to be expected.”

“Of course, of course! Now it begins! I’ll handle the small fries with 『Thundercloud』, and that Toon guy-”

Lee Jiwon leaped from the thundercloud, casting a spell.

Remembering the pain from a past battle when the thundercloud was drawn too close to Toon, he decided to take it on directly.

“I’ll face it myself. 『Giga Blade』!”

Shwaaaaak-!

Coating his black sword with even darker energy, Lee Jiwon led the charge.

“Don’t fall behind!”

“Follow! Follow Lee Jiwon!”

Ku, gu, gugu, gugugu?

——!

A wedge-shaped massive formation surged towards Toon.

Now that all cards were on the table, only one thing remained: a clash of power.

『Aaaaah——–!』

“Brandish.”

“Haaaap!”

“Hup!”

Toon’s second whip-like strike, Alexander’s swing, Lee Jiwon’s magic swordplay, and Peiwu’s Hwangryong collided. This was the signal.

Even the combined top-grade attacks of rankers 1, 2, and 3 barely matched two of Toon’s arm swings.

But that was enough.

As long as Toon’s attacks could be blocked, other users could inflict any amount of damage.

In the Barren Land of Blooming Flames, the war between the fierce monsters and even fiercer users continued unabated.

Skills and shouts were rampant, but only three people weren’t focused on the chaos.

Luger, Kidd, and Leeha, each busy observing their surroundings.

In a slightly distanced location from the brutal battlefield where people and monsters were torn apart, Leeha slowed his breathing to assess the situation.

The distance to Toon was roughly 900 meters.

‘What about Bailephus?’

Bailephus was still unable to approach Toon.

Without the Ancient-grade gold dragon, the fight below wouldn’t even be possible.

Even the attacks of five among the top 10 rankers could barely equal two of Toon’s arm swings.

“But the attacks on Bailephus are still fierce. Brown must be nearby.”

Leeha utilized his Eagle’s Eye skill to survey the distance, while adjusting the Black Bass for relatively closer targets.

After all, his immediate goal wasn’t the Arcane Sniper.

“Neutralizing Toon is the key. That’s all that needs to be done. The immediate objective is to clear the Ma demon’s stronghold.”

Toon was right there.

Spotting a 30-meter-tall dinosaur posed no difficulty.

Despite its frenzied movement and roaring as it slaughtered the users, rapid repositioning was impossible for it.

‘Besides, Brown is keeping Bailephus in check. They haven’t noticed me yet. Meaning, now is my chance.’

Leeha returned the Eagle’s Eye skill to its original setting and peered through the scope.

The monster, Toon, with a black body and red spots, was a terrifying sight even from a distance.

“Distance check… 920, 923 meters?”

Leeha began fine-tuning the Black Bass.

Even during this, he communicated with Kijung, Lee Jiwon, Ram Hwayeon, and others via whispers, confirming Toon’s exact size.

“The target’s precise height is about 33 meters. Then, adjusting the observed distance to 919 meters. The target should be the head, right above those yellow eyes, aiming directly at the brain.”

Click… click, click.

Lying prone, his fingers delicately adjusted the settings.

The long barrel of the rifle remained utterly still. For Leeha, a 900-meter range was as good as his favorite spot.

“Huuuu… Don’t be nervous. Good, good. It’s not like I’d miss a target bigger than a Brass Golem at this distance, right? This is a piece of cake! No, more like lying down after eating cake.”

Leeha joked to ease his tension, pulling the trigger. He felt the heavy sensation of a bullet engaging.

No need to use range-extending skills. No point in exposing his position unnecessarily.

‘The title 『Shadow Hitman』 doubles the damage when undetected. Now, quietly, calmly, just one shot to the creature’s head.’

After all, that spot was an instant kill point.

Even if it didn’t kill instantly, double damage would be a significant blow to Toon, and Leeha intended to clear the quest by incapacitating it.

Haaaa…

Leeha slowly regulated his breathing.

Toon roared within the scope. The vibration in the air was so delicate it could be felt even at his location.

Many users in front of Toon must have succumbed to the status effect ‘fear’.

‘The opportunity will come. There will be a moment when it won’t move at all.’

Hadn’t he observed the battle until now? Leeha’s effort to find Toon’s pattern was not in vain.

Lee Jiwon swung his black sword at Toon’s knee.

The sword, surrounded by lightning, seemed to struggle even to strip Toon’s scales.

Toon turned.

Its tail, larger than its arms, was too thick to be evaded by jumping.

Pei Wu’s dragon, formed of qi, intercepted Toon’s tail swipe. The tremble in the dinosaur’s body was visible even to Leeha.

Behind them, Ram Hwajung was casting.

The blue particles entering the spell indicated it was no lightweight magic.

‘Magic. Yes, that’s it, Ram Hwajung-ssi.’ Leeha’s index finger touched the Black Bass’s trigger.

The coldness of the metal was unfelt. Surely, that spell would create the opportunity.

The moment Ram Hwajung’s lips moved, a massive ice spear was formed.

Was it a fully mana-charged Ice Spear?

Leeha didn’t know the skill’s name, but the ice spear seemed large enough to completely pierce Toon.

As the ice spear flew towards Toon, other users also attacked, trying to distract it.

But their attacks were futile.

Toon seemed momentarily startled by the ice spear, but then calmly opened its mouth.

If it exhaled air there, the ice spear would vanish without a trace.

Toon opened its mouth.

Just as it was about to cast a wide-area dispel with a roar!

『Mana Vaporizing Shot』

Thwoooaaah——-!

Leeha’s index finger pulled the trigger.

The moment Toon extended its head to roar was already read perfectly by Leeha.

A hole was drilled into the head of the 33-meter-tall dinosaur.

A small hole right above the eye let in a stream of bright red blood.

(To be continued…)
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 “Okay! It should be neutralized now… or… should have been?”

Leeha couldn’t take his eyes off the scope.

He had clearly shot through the head, so why hadn’t it died? Not only had it not died, but…

“Has it discovered me?”

How had it pinpointed his location so quickly? It wasn’t just sensing the direction. The vertically split pupil of Toon was unmistakably looking right at him.

Leeha felt sweat trickle down his spine.

The mere eye contact with Toon reignited a sense of impending doom in him.

No gunshot could have been heard in that chaos, but with just one attack, Toon had definitely pinpointed his location.

What could be the method? It meant someone was watching.

As if to prove Leeha’s hunch, the pressure on Bailephus had just eased. Leeha hastily got up from his position.

“Damn it, I always have bad feelings about this-”

Thwack-!

The ground where he had been lying erupted in dust and gravel.

A piece of gravel shot up towards his face, but his Jellipong armor, transformed into a coat, easily deflected it.

『Mong Mong Mong!』

“Thanks, Jellypong!”

There was only one reason Toon could have spotted him.

Either Brown or Elizabeth, one of them had spotted him.

“Damn it! Shared vision!”

Most users couldn’t understand why Toon had staggered momentarily or why it was bleeding from its eye sockets.


Only those who knew of Leeha’s prowess understood that attack, thinking that with Leeha’s sniping, they could defeat Toon. However, such a shot would no longer be possible.

Though not as noisy as the pandemonium between Toon and the users, a more intense and suffocating chase between the snipers had just begun.

“Damn it, I based the sniping points on where Toon appeared during the first total attack-”

Leeha frowned as he looked over the map drawn by Rubini.

He had set five sniping points specifically for targeting Toon.

Indeed, Toon had appeared in a similar spot as during the first total attack, and Leeha’s sniping point setup was excellent, but regrettably, too perfect, making it easy to be exposed to the enemy.

A position a top sniper would think of could be easily predicted by top snipers on the other side.

“I just wanted to take down Toon and escape! I wasn’t ready to face the original three snipers yet-”

Thwack-!

“Argh!”

Leeha stumbled as the ground suddenly gave way. Tripping in the dug-up earth, he rolled down helplessly.

“Shooting at a moving target with such precision-”

But even as he fell, he noticed the dug-up ground. Based on his current position, the angle was about 340 degrees. From this angle…

“Behind this rock, they can’t hit me!”

Leeha crawled without a care for dignity, seeking cover behind the rock.

The rock was small, barely enough to cover him if he huddled up, but it was the safest refuge at the moment.

‘I’ve got the direction but can’t figure out the distance.’

His head was regretful, but his body was already reacting.

There was almost no sound, only a faint sound of air displacement. It was definitely more than 4 km away.

‘And if I assume they fired two shots at Bailephus…’


When Bailephus’s duplicate and the real one split in different directions, Leeha couldn’t tell which was which, but one of them had been hit twice.

Leeha had observed the entire situation.

‘3.3 seconds. Assuming a muzzle velocity of 830 m/s, the distance of one of them from Bailephus at that time was about 2.7 km.’

Bailephus was much farther ahead of Leeha.

Based on that location, if it’s 2.7 km from Bailephus, what would be the distance to Leeha now?

He already knew the direction.

With only approximate data on direction and distance, Leeha’s mind compiled all the necessary information to solve the trigonometric puzzle.

‘Anyway, finding the target is about moving from abstraction to approximation, and from approximation to detail! So, based on the current standard, the distance between the enemy and me is around 4.5 km or so!’

Click, click, click.

Leeha quickly adjusted the Black Bass.

He knew without seeing. The last thing left was to check! Cautiously, Leeha peered out.

‘1.2… 3..4..5..

Thwoooaaah!

Leeha’s head was struck and sent flying far away.

“Ah!”

Or rather, precisely speaking, it was a piece of jerky he had taken out of his bag, stuck on a branch, and slightly exposed as a decoy.

It was a powerful blow enough to numb his hand, but Leeha was not discouraged.

In fact, he was slightly excited.

That single shot allowed him to infer much.

When someone too skilled makes a mistake, it often turns against them.


‘Good. Good. That beastly reaction, thanks to that, you’re going to die.’ If he had observed a bit longer, he would have realized it wasn’t a head, but the skill was too good, triggering the trigger without even confirming it was a decoy.

‘And with that reaction – I can guess who you are. Same personality as Luger, huh?’

Reacting before thinking? Snipers don’t do that.

Then, the one targeting Leeha now is more likely to be using ‘piercing’ shots rather than ‘accurate’ ones.

Seeing the unseen enemy.

No, one must be able to see in order to survive a sniper battle. It’s the most basic and crucial point.

An instinct, even without experience, stirred Leeha’s blood.

‘Well, then it’s time to return the favor.’

Leeha took out another piece of jerky.

There’s only one chance.

He steadied his breath.

Then he threw the jerky to the right and rolled to the left. At the same time, he quietly murmured the skill of the Black Bass.

『Camouflage』!”

Whoosh…

Now he knew the direction.

Leeha moved the scope busily. Using Camouflage, as long as there’s no significant movement, the enemy shouldn’t be able to see him.

More importantly, he threw the jerky and rolled in the opposite direction.

Even Brown couldn’t see this place with the naked eye. He must be using a scope. Therefore, a moment’s shake would have prevented him from detecting Leeha using Camouflage.

‘Where are you?’

Haaah…

But it’s not a guarantee of safety.

Even if it buys time, it wouldn’t be more than a minute. Leeha’s scope moved rapidly.

The direction wouldn’t be more than 10 degrees wider than the front. The distance had already been sufficiently predicted.

He can find it. He must trust his calculations.

The enemy is definitely there.

In Leeha’s scope, something shimmering entered.

The light flickered for a moment and then disappeared, but Leeha knew what it meant.

A sound of thwoooaaah came from his right.

‘Opened the scope cap, used it to fire, then as soon as he realized it was a decoy, closed the cap.’

But it was too late.

The sunlight reflecting off the lens had already given away the position.

Leeha focused there. It was all similar natural colors, but it couldn’t escape his eyes.

On a rotting tree stump, he saw a long stick coated in dark Brown.

A camouflaged rifle, but once seen, it was not difficult to filter it out.

Behind the stick, he quickly spotted a figure in a dark Brown robe, fully cloaked.

Someone was there.

Sitting and shooting, a person had placed the rifle on the tree stump.

It wasn’t close enough to see the face, but Leeha recognized him.

‘Mr. Brown.’

The distance was about 4.4km.

Finally, Leeha had found Brown.

If he was slightly distracted, he wouldn’t be able to distinguish if what he was seeing was a person, a slightly elongated rock, a cactus, or a tree.

From 4.4km away, Brown appeared at that level to Leeha.

For Leeha, succeeding in a snipe over 4km had only happened once before, and that was against a Brass Golem over 10 meters tall and distinctly colored.

‘There’s no time to whine. I just hope Camouflage doesn’t wear off…’

Leeha clenched his teeth.

If this skill broke the camouflage effect of Camouflage, it would all be over.

But Camouflage is a legendary skill of the Black Bass!

Leeha trusted in it.

Above all, without these skills, sniping Brown from this distance would be impossible.

『Joint Fixation: Lower』, 『Joint Fixation: Upper』.”

Whirrrr…

Leeha felt the mana vines wrapping around his body and focused his gaze on Brown.

Were there any movements, had the scope cap been opened again, did he notice any flickering dark Brown mana energy?!

‘No movements. Good.’

Camouflage had indeed met Leeha’s expectations.

As long as the user doesn’t deactivate it themselves, the only condition to break Camouflage is ‘moving more than 1m in 1 minute.’

Leeha would have loved to shoot Toon, but if Brown was watching him from that spot, he would undoubtedly die after the shot.

‘Let’s do this. I have to.’

Leeha steadied his breath.

Brown hadn’t discovered him yet.

If he doesn’t take down Brown now, neutralizing Toon would also be impossible.

Leeha saw Brown.

It wasn’t clear, but it was enough. As long as there was no movement like now, even an absurd ultra-long-range snipe of 4.4km might have a chance.

‘This isn’t reality, a place where impossible snipes become possible. Besides, I can even ignore wind direction and speed.’

Leeha pulled the trigger.

Click!

His heart rate, heightened by intense movement and tension, was now calming down.

He shouldn’t be excited. The most crucial moment should be met with the most relaxed mind to pull the trigger.

Leeha completely relaxed his body.

Even in a moment of emptiness, his body was firmly supported by the vines created by the Joint Fixation skill. Focusing on Brown and aiming at him, Leeha couldn’t even think ‘Will I become the Arcane Sniper if I kill Brown?’

“Haahaaaa—-『Sniping』

After using the last skill to increase range, Leeha’s index finger began to pull the trigger.

He had perfectly observed Brown.

The timing of the shot was also excellent.

But if there was one thing lacking, it was not figuring out who the old generation ‘pierce’ was.

What does it mean to throw a decoy and stay hidden all the time?

Where can someone who doesn’t use spatial movement go?

Using a decoy is not something a defensive person does.

If one wants to act offensively, what can they do?

Especially if such a person is invisible? What should I do now?

Brown had already finished thinking about all this.

Just before pulling the trigger.

“… Huh?!”

No, when Leeha’s index finger had pulled the trigger about 30%, his mind suddenly snapped back to awareness.

He saw the long stick on the tree stump shaking.

He knew what it meant. Leeha quickly tried to pull the trigger.

“Damn – Hurry -”

Thwoooaaah——–

“Whoaaa!”

The rock where Leeha had been hiding just moments ago was shattered.

The penetrating explosive rounds that Luger could use were techniques passed down from Brown. It would be impossible for the original three snipers not to be able to use that skill.

“Thanks, Jellypong! But – where’s my bullet?!”

Thankfully, due to the Joint Fixation skill keeping his body fixed and immobile, he didn’t move!

Leeha’s Camouflage was still intact.

Jellypong had protected Leeha, enveloped within the explosion range, so his HP wasn’t reduced.

But that was all.

(To be continued…)
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Next to the log that Brown had hidden from, something went boom-! Leeha watched something shot up into the air.

The bullet Leeha fired missed its mark by approximately one meter.

His lower half was fixed to the ground, suffering from Joint Fixation: his upper body was not completely restrained. The moment he pulled the trigger, the blast made Black Bass’s aim sway abruptly.

Leeha didn’t take his eye off the scope.

Hoping that Brown hadn’t located his position, or was mistaking him for someone who had been caught and killed in the recent explosion.

“……Damn it…”

As expected, it wasn’t so.

Leeha kept his eye on the scope, watching as Brown’s gun barrel subtly moved.

Once used, Joint Fixation makes it impossible to release for 20 minutes. He would either have to use teleportation to flee or die right there.

Leeha had only two options to choose from.

‘If it comes to this, Toon quest will fail. Damn, I should’ve just shot Toon…’

Brown’s muzzle was perfectly positioned in front of Leeha. Through the scope, Leeha saw this too.

There was no time for contemplation. He had to let go of regrets.

He needed to risk his life, as only then would come the next leap.

As he had promised, Leeha whispered to Blaugrunn, about to ask him to summon him through the 『Summon: Partner』 skill.

“… Huh?”

Leeha had two choices. Either to flee, or to die.

But was Leeha the only one here? Another person’s choices were not limited to these two.

A tremendous explosion erupted from the cluster of trees where Brown was hidden.


The ammunition fired from a relatively short distance set off the explosion, hurling destructive projectiles towards Brown, shredding the rocks and trees indiscriminately.

“Luger?!”

That wasn’t all.

Along with that assault, another person, fluttering the hem of his coat and wearing a hat, started to charge towards Brown’s hiding place.

“Kidd!”

Users who were not targeting Toon, no, Brown’s ‘dongsaengs’, had been waiting from the start for Leeha to find Brown. They had been lying low within the horde, intervening only then.

“Kahahaha! Just as I thought! Although Leeha is of no use, he has a keen eye!”

“I agree. But we cannot hand over the 《Arcane Sniper》!”

“Heh, whoever kills him first gets the inheritance. And of course, it’s my turn to kill that bastard senior. 『Cannon Strengthening: Flat Cannon』, 『Jagdpanzer Kanone』, 『Panzerfaust』!”

Co- bang-bang-bang——-*—-

The users momentarily turned their heads towards the sudden explosion, but that was all.

The other users who needed to focus on the imminent threat of Toon quickly lost interest.

Looking at Kidd, who was running towards the uprising flames, Luger laughed.

“Will he survive that explosion-”

“Woah, what?! It’s the stupid direct dongsaeng and the unlucky out-of-boundary dongsaeng!”

Pierce, tukwaaaa——-!

It was an explosion substantial enough to kill someone even by the splash damage, yet Brown was leisurely laughing.

The two counterattacks launched in an instant sent chills down Luger’s spine.

Rather, it was an unexpected event that Kidd, who was even closer, skillfully dodged it.

“Whoa?! You wanted Browless, but instead, you became a Browless?”


“That’s not even funny. 『Eighteen Panning』.”

Luger, who was far behind Kidd, watched Kidd’s back as four arms appeared.

They were not arms created from illusions or mana. Instead, they were afterimages created by Kidd’s movements, which were beyond the speed of visual perception.

He’s not firing all four revolvers at once. He swiftly fired three revolvers like lightning, then aimed a loaded pistol to handle the aftermath.

When fighting, Kidd’s aggressive and fast-paced style had unknowingly evolved to cope with any unexpected situation.

“This punk.. such an unlucky attack.. it’s as if we’re fighting that annoying Browless!”

Eighteen gunshots continued to ring out non-stop, but Brown dodged them all with his sneaky maneuvers. The robe that he was wearing was full of holes, but there was no blood. This meant there hadn’t been a direct hit.

“Not even one?!”

“You don’t need many shots, unfortunate dongsaeng. You need one perfect one, just like this!”

Piercing- “Oops?!”

“Yes, just like I said!” – Pierce!

The bullets flying towards Kidd exploded in the air as they collided with bullets shot from behind Kidd. They had not planned this in advance. Still, their coordination was perfect.

“Ha-ha! Look at you! You were more adorable practicing calligraphy with paint! Where did you learn such bad habits?!”

“You’re the one who made me this way. In fact, I’ve surpassed you. I’m an original!”

“Ugh, is 『Pierce』 only used by such men?”

Upon Brown’s harsh words, Luger didn’t say a word. Even while speaking, the simultaneous fire was a characteristic of 『Pierce』. Kidd was stuck in the middle of a barrage blasting from front and back, but his expression didn’t falter. 『Danger Perception』 shows its real value. Eighteen Panning’s failure is due to unsuccessfully adjusting his distance. You need to get closer, even just a bit. One step closer!’

Kidd moved forward as shells collided with each other, and armor-piercing shells lost their trajectory due to a blast wave, exploding all around him. It was as though the shells were intentionally avoiding Kidd, who skillfully moved along a smooth path. The unfortunate part was Brown, who was constantly moving even while engaging in unceasing artillery fire with Luger.

‘Damn, even after I successfully manage sustained artillery fire, they’re not being hit!’

‘Even if ‘Danger Perception’ is successful, it’s like walking through a minefield… Is he telling me to close the narrowed distance again, and that too while fighting with Luger?’

Brown’s hands were fighting Luger, and his feet were facing Kidd. The onslaught from two of the new-generation Musketeers was easily being deflected by Brown, one of the old-generation Musketeers.


“This is exciting! Damn, it’s my first time having fun since coming to this wasteland! If only my wife were here with me!”

He even laughed loudly.

By the time Luger and Kidd charged at Brown, the youngest was already turning his gun barrel.

‘The two won’t be able to beat Brown by rushing in. But… they can buy us time.’ That was enough. He wanted to cooperate with the two to target Brown, but knew it would be challenging. Even when he thought he hadn’t been detected and stopped moving, sniping at 4.4 kilometers had failed. Even swallowed by an explosive blast, failure was just that. Could he snipe Brown, who was moving intensely after the two’s intrusion? He knew better than anyone that he hadn’t reached that level yet. Therefore, there was only one target. The initial and most important target, Toon! “Ah, ah ah ah———!”

“Look out! The whip arm is coming!”

“Dodge it, dodge it, dodge it!”

Maybe because his attacks were simple compared to his size, the users were fairly accustomed to Toon raid. Thud-thud-thud———-!These were users whose goal from the beginning was not Toon, but Brown. They were ‘Juniors’ of Brown, to be precise.

“HAHA! I knew it! Leeha might be useless, but his eyesight is excellent!”

“I agree! But I can’t give up on the ‘Arcane Sniper’.”

“Well, whoever kills him gets everything. And it’s my right to kill that idiot senior of ours.

‘Cannon Lenforcement: Flat Cannon’, ‘Jagdpanzer Kanone’, and ‘Panzerfaust’!”

As Luger and Kidd ran toward the source of the explosion, bursts of laughter filled the air.

But that was not all.

Another figure took off running towards where Brown was hiding.

“Kidd! Get a grip!”

The users momentarily turned their heads at the unexpected explosion before their attention quickly returned to Toon. They couldn’t spare any attention for anything else.

“Ah, aaahhhh!”

“Be careful! The whip-like arm is coming!”

“Dodge it, dodge it, dodge it!”

Despite its simplicity, Toon was so large and powerful that users were relatively used to dealing with it.

“Five out, five out!”

“Three dealers, two healers are down! We need two more! Hurry and replenish the formation!”

Of course, being accustomed to it is entirely different from dealing with it.

Even though Toon had simple attack patterns, its attacks were overpowering and could tear the users to shreds.

Alexander, Lee Jiwon, Pei Wu, Ram Hwajung, and Bobae, the top ten rankers, were scattered about, waiting for an opportunity to attack Toon. But it was not an easy task.

‘Bailephus – damn, it’s not going to work.’

Bailephus was approaching Alexander rather closely, but his barrier was still intact and resonating in a booming echo.

The Dragon Knight was bound to have a stronger attack when it was wholly completed. However, the monsters seemed to know this and gave him no chance.

‘Brown is in the many, so it means Bailephus will be Elizabeth’s target? This is rather fortunate.’

Leeha rapidly adjusted his clicks. It felt as though he had just solved a difficult problem and was now working on an easy one.

Toon was close compared to Brown and much bigger.

His accuracy had abruptly hit rock bottom. If he couldn’t succeed this time, he wouldn’t be Leeha anymore.

‘My sniping skill is over, but it’s okay. It’s enough. I just need to control my breathing… then I need to let out multiple…’

Hmmmm…

Since Leeha had already been detected, the Shadow Hitman title effect wouldn’t apply anymore, but it didn’t matter.

What would happen if he hit it with dozens of rounds of multiple bullets?

Even if it withstands his attacks, the top rankers led by Alexander would follow up with deadly strikes.

In that case, regardless of Toon’s remarkable skin resilience, it wouldn’t be able to withstand it all.

Leeha confirmed Toon’s head’s and chest’s position through the scope.

‘Here comes multiple-‘

Just before he pulled the trigger, Leeha heard the sound of gravel crushing next to him.

“I’m certain that it was around here. Did he already move? No way, he must have used Bess’s Camouflage. He must still be around.”

In order to calm his trembling body, Leeha tried his very best.

The voice he heard right now, a high-tone chatterer-like voice, made Leeha anxious.

“Hey! Are you here, dongsaeng? Where could you be hiding? You seem to be quite good at hiding, but if you can’t beat our husbands yet, you should return the marksmanship title, don’t you think? I’ve heard that ‘penetration’ and ‘rapid fire’ are interesting, so I wondered what kind of ‘marksman’ you are. But it’s quite disappointing if you’re struggling at just 4km.”

The voice was unfamiliar.

But even so, Leeha instantaneously understood what that woman’s words meant.

The old generation’s Three Musketeers were not merely composed of Mister Brown.

“Even now, if you show yourself, I can at least give you some advice as a senior archer!”

Approximately 3m beside Leeha, who was lying down using camouflage, stood a woman. She was holding a rifle that was even longer than a typical pike. Miss Elizabeth unveiled herself.

‘Elizabeth?’

Leeha’s brain whirred rapidly.

His index finger, which was almost pulling the trigger, barely managed to resist.

Even if he used the skill, the camouflage wouldn’t be lifted. However, the scene of his firing a skill would be exposed.

‘How did she…?’

Leeha gently moved his head and upper body so as not to make even a gravel sound.

But she didn’t come fully into Leeha’s sight.

All he could barely make out was that her figure was thinner than he’d thought, and she was holding a rifle taller than herself.

On an instinctual level, Leeha knew.

The gun that had a similar design to ‘Black Bass’, which had a significantly longer barrel, signified something specific.

The item was designed and constructed entirely for sniping.

‘It’s even better than the Legendary Black Bass?’

It could be at least a tie, or perhaps it might be of a higher rank than the Legendary Black Bass. It could possibly be an item of the Myth grade.

“If I turn this area into junk, even though you’re using camouflage, you’ll know that you ought to show yourself. If you show yourself now, we can converse. But if you’re caught and are forced to show yourself, you will die. So, what are you going to do?”

Elizabeth was moving around the area, kicking pebbles around her.

It was not due to some quirky walk or a flight of the blues.

Camouflage can hide your appearance, but it doesn’t make your body disappear. In other words, sand or pebbles could collide with Leeha’s body at any time.

If the sand or pebbles that were kicked by her made a movement in the air, she would shoot a bullet at that place – all in less than 0.1 seconds.

Leeha held his breath and lay flat on the ground.

The footsteps of her sneakers, which sounded like tap, tap, could be heard from behind Leeha.

(To be continued …)
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“Using the 『Mana Vaporizing Shot』 wasn’t a bad move in general, but not this time. Looks like you’ve grown accustomed to using the Camouflage, but you’re still far from mastery. If you were targeting a monster of the caliber of Toon, you should’ve used the 『Multi-Warhead Shot』 from the start. Did you really think that dumb dinosaur-like brute would use magic? The Mana Vaporizing Shot was utterly useless. It could easily kill two Ancient-tier Dragons with just its jaw.”

Elizabeth was entirely certain that Leeha was listening. Of course, Leeha did not answer. Elizabeth who had been pacing around now positioned herself right behind Leeha.

‘The sound of footsteps has stopped.’ Elizabeth was squatting on the fragments of the rock that MY Brown had shattered, wearing an indifferent expression, as if saying, ‘I don’t care what happens to Leeha’.”

“Ah! Maybe you still can’t use the Multi-Warhead Shot? Hmm, it would’ve been good if you weren’t such a foolish protégé…… Although judging from seeing you barely shooting 5km and struggling, it’s likely that you haven’t mastered the fifth level yet. Phew, what has your master taught you? Ah, maybe you don’t have a teacher?”

Elizabeth kept babbling on and on, sometimes groaning, sometimes sighing with an implication of contempt, and occasionally yawning out of boredom. Leeha remained silent in response to every comment.

His mind was already overwhelmed with worries about how to get through this situation.

“Ahhhhhh! Really not going to come out? Let’s just talk! You have no idea how bored I was with that idiot of a husband! Even the monster remains weren’t good company! I rushed over here thinking I finally found a protégé I could actually have a decent conversation with, but I am being ignored?”

As Elizabeth did not receive any response, her voice turned a little shriller. Unable to adjust to her dialogues, it seemed as if she was bantering with an old friend or school protégé.

‘……a trap? Is she setting me up into a trap with that casual banter?’

Was she just planning to blow his head off the moment he responded to her friendly tone?

Leeha’s unease never faded.

The grim imagination of her gigantic muzzle from the long-barreled gun aiming at the back of his head kept growing.

“Is Browless doing well? Oh, I guess not.”

Elizabeth’s shrill voice softened a little at that moment.

A faint sigh trailed off after her sentence.

“He must have been upset for not being able to make a sound. Not just because he came here…….because he had to hide too much from the beginning.”

Elizabeth sighed again. Leeha thought that her voice seemed somewhat suppressed and emotional. Though his ears were focused on her words, Leeha’s mind was filled with thoughts of getting out from this situation.

‘Think. If Elizabeth has skills at least equal to Mr. Brown, survival post-fire should be considered impossible.’

If Leeha targeted Toon, he would have to put his own life at stake.


Of course, considering the common and spirit quests, there may be a worth in an exchange of that level.

After all, Leeha just needed to log in calmly after ten days to collect the 『World Tree’s Flames』, right?

The problem, however, was if Toon wasn’t neutralized.’If the 『Scattered』 doesn’t work…?’

Elizabeth was already behind him.

The moment Toon was hit by the initial gunfire, he instantly figured out his location. It was certain that Brown and Elizabeth had been exchanging messages with magic akin to whispered words.

What if Elizabeth contacts him before the bullet from the multi-barreled gun reaches me?

There’s a high possibility that Toon can avoid it.

‘Damn it, I can’t shoot while this woman is by my side. If I shoot at Toon, Blaugrunn-ssi might alert him beforehand…

The person by his side wasn’t a normal monster or regular user. Her mana control of a dragon could move faster than he could anticipate.

Another line of thought occurred to him as he thought this far.

There’s a woman sighing heavily behind him!

Isn’t there another consequence of this situation!

‘Elizabeth being here means Bailephus can approach Alexander! Once the complete dragon knight is formed, he can confirm Toon’s neutralization and retreat-‘

What would have happened to the check against Bailephus if Elizabeth was here?

Leeha stared at Bailephus with hope-filled eyes.

And he was horrified.

—————, wrecking —————!

The sound of hitting Bailephus’ perfect barrier was still ringing intermittently.

‘… Then who is that?’

Brown, with Luger and Kidd, was still in a close-quarter artillery fight. It is impossible to shoot Bailephus in that mess.


Neither is it Elizabeth. Even if she were using a silencer, it wouldn’t make sense.

‘Even if I use a silencer, it would be impossible to block the sound completely. I wouldn’t be able to not hear it from this distance?!’

There is only one possibility.

Leeha could only pray desperately that his heartbeats wouldn’t be heard by Elizabeth.

‘There is a third party.’

There is another musketeer who is neither Brown nor Elizabeth.

Someone whose face and identity he does not know!

And Leeha was able to ascertain the third party’s identity in an instant. Not because he was smart.

Because Elizabeth, who was babbling beside him, gave him more than enough hint.

“But I couldn’t say anything because of the war. If I spoke up, he who looked fierce but had a kind heart would have tried to stop us… Neither my husband nor I are the kind to stay still. We probably would have ended up fighting more. Isn’t it extremely normal to stay silent? Pregnancy does not reduce shooting skills. Oh right! Are you male, female? Hmm, I hope you are a female. I think you’d get along well with our son.”

When she headed to the Demon Army, there was a child inside her.

The child of Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth.

What if it was 20 years ago and Koma has grown after a safe birth?

That child would be about twenty years old now.

Perhaps there was another male NPC somewhere who had completed elite training in shooting, perhaps even inheriting the properties of ‘Pierce’ and ‘Accuracy’. Luger and Kidd were still struggling in their fight against Brown.

They had unleashed all sorts of dazzling skills, but Brown was by no means easy.

Even with his threatening attacks, his bullets seemed to miss Luger and Kidd.

It was as if the purpose of this battle was not to kill them, but for mere containment or educational purposes.

Luger and Kidd, feeling the nuance in every bullet, became increasingly provoked and tried even more fiercely to corner Brown. Still, that was no easy task.

The same was true for Toon.


The ‘Dinosaur’, who knew perfectly well that Bailephus could not get close, had nothing more to fear.

Rankers and other users were already using numerous skills, their mana almost depleted. But Toon, who only uses physical combat capabilities, showed no difference between then and now.

“Damn, the more we fight, the stronger he seems!”

“We feel like he’s getting stronger as we die!”

The cornered users cried out tragically.

A considerable number of users had faintly felt this, but hadn’t realized it.

Only two people discovered this fact.

Pei Wu and Kijung instantly grasped Toon’s nature.

“…He absorbs blood!”

“Crazy – It’s Igor!? He has a Berserker-like tendency!”

A monster that gets stronger by absorbing blood.

The reason Toon frolicked even more whenever users died was not simply because there were one or two fewer people to stop him!

Alexander and Lee Jiwon’s faces distorting greatly. That means Toon’s current state shows no difference when compared to when he first started fighting.

Distasteful as it was for Lee Jiwon, who had expended all his energy dealing with nearby small monsters and even the lightning cloud energy, and for Alexander who couldn’t fully utilize Bailephus’ power. Despair, chaos, and panic gradually spread among the users fighting Toon. Elizabeth, muttering from behind Lee Jiwon, also sensed that atmosphere.

“It’s over. But are you really not going to come out? I only wanted to talk. Should I praise you for being so cautious, or call you a coward? Ah, it’s no fun. Life is boring.”

The sound of Elizabeth stretching reached Leeha’s ears.

And not only was Elizabeth watching that scene. Leeha also scrutinized Brown, Luger, and Kidd’s battle, as well as the war between Toon and all the other users.

“If you really won’t shoot, show your face, kid! If you don’t come out, I’ll just-”

Listening to Elizabeth’s last whining, Leeha had to make a decision.

“Are you really not going to shoot.”

swoosh……

It had been quite a while since the initial fight with Brown.

Leeha got up from his seat, dissolving all his joint fixation and camouflage.

Elizabeth, who turned around, was a woman who certainly did not look middle-aged or over forty.

As she gazed at Leeha, she was a purely innocent NPC who sparkled endlessly.

“Wow?! You really showed yourself? Are you a fool?”

“Fool, while you were asking me to show myself-”

“You?”

Her brows dramatically narrowed.

Where was the twinkling-eyed woman from just a moment ago? Leeha felt sweat flow down his neck.

At this moment, the charisma dominating the air seemed to suppress Leeha’s body.

“Ma’am- umm… Senior–”

“Could you please call me senior? Hehe, I don’t want to act like an old fart now. But we should get this right.”

Elizabeth laughed heartily.

Being fixated on such unimportant honorifics.

Leeha was a bit flustered, but if he could save his life by calling her senior, he would gladly do it.

‘It’s not just about saving my life.’

Blaugrunn: Ha Leeha-nim! You are not really trying to talk to her!? Even if I can summon quickly, if you can’t signal, it’s the end!

The strategy he shared with Blaugrunn was to try to dig up information through conversation. That was why Leeha stood up.

Even Blaugrunn knew how dangerous this strategy was.

Leeha ignored Blaugrunn’s whisper and met her eyes.

“It’s a little disappointing that you’re a boy… but you look quite decent. What do you think?”

“I don’t want to have that kind of conversation.”

“Huh? Then what? Ah! I promised to give you advice, didn’t I? Um, let’s see… what should we talk about first? What’s been the most difficult for you recently?”

Elizabeth sat back down on the rock

Leeha’s Black Bass briefly caught her eye, but she soon lost interest in the gun.

It made Leeha even more nervous, the actions of a person who was confident that no matter what Leeha did, it would pose no threat to her.

‘The magazine is in good shape. The gun is loaded. At this close range, there’s no need for click adjustment.’

Shoot immediately.

‘It won’t even take a second.’

Can she react at this distance within a fraction of a second?

“I’ll tell you in advance, don’t bother. If I wanted to kill you, I would have done so already. You do know why I’ve been sitting here, don’t you?”

“…Because you knew I was here.”

Leeha’s brain froze for a moment.

Elizabeth was an NPC who could control the surrounding air with just a simple change in facial expression.

“So why–”

“I don’t know. Maybe because I’m getting older, I enjoy chit-chat. Do you see my excited husband over there? Somehow, it feels like the older we get, the more childishly we behave.”

Elizabeth pointed in Brown’s direction with a giggle.

It was a distance that could be considered almost close to the horizon without a scope, an extremely far distance, but she saw that place?

“Do you see that?”

Leeha pulled out his gun at the same time as her answer. There were no rails on top of her gun barrel.

It was a pure gun. A gun without any attachments. (To Be Continued…)

TL’s corner:

Leeha getting toyed by Elizabeth. The old guards are still stronger than the new bloods. 
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“……. Are you saying you don’t even need a scope?”

Brown indeed had shown how to open and close the scope cap. But perhaps Elizabeth does not need a scope at all.

“Ah! Scope! Yeah, right!” She clapped her hands and laughed out loud.

As Leeha reacted with surprise, she pointed to Black Bass while chuckling.

“Looks like she hasn’t unlocked the seals after the fifth! You won’t be needing a scope anymore. Don’t you know why 『Bullseye』 is so accurate?”

“What does that mean-”

“This name isn’t just because we hit faraway targets well! Oops, well, it won’t be fun if I tell you everything. Do you have any other questions? Oh! You should answer my previous question. How’s Browless? That man seems like he lacks business acumen. The Academy must be a maelstrom by now. Who taught you 『Pierce』 and 『Bullseye』?”

Elizabeth’s words poured out like machine gunfire.

Switching from one topic to another, one reaction to another. Leeha had difficulty keeping up with the conversation.

But one point was especially important.

‘Doesn’t need a scope? The reason for the accuracy?’

These were things that he could never hear from Browless.

Wasn’t the reason it was named 『Bullseye』 because it had the ability to hit a far-off target well?

『Eagle’s Eye』 version upgrade…?’

The only possibility he could think of was that. He gathered his thoughts for the time being.

“The headmaster said he will be coming here soon.”

“Really?! Really? Oh no, it’s too late.”

Elizabeth looked really disappointed.

“What do you mean it’s too late-”


“You, trying to get various information from me and watch the situation to snipe down Toon, right?”

Listening to her words, Leeha felt a sting of regret.

Leeha hadn’t revealed his camouflage for no reason. Because he had enough scenarios and plans for various situations, he was able to take such a risk.

Reveal himself, converse, and when her guard is down, subdue her or shoot Toon down.

Because he had considered everything, including an escape using Blaugrunn, he was able to reveal himself.

“Your double decoy using the piece of meat was quite impressive. From then on, I knew. Ah! My dongsaeng is a cunning one! A guy like you wouldn’t just reveal yourself in a situation like this.”

But all Leeha’s shrewd tricks were read by Elizabeth.

As Leeha stood silent, she grinned once again.

“How could I read your thoughts?”

“….. If you were in my situation, you would come up with the same plan.”

Elizabeth nodded at his reply.

But her actions contained a slightly different nuance.

Saying it was late because he had his thoughts read, it surely meant something is really late.

“It’s time for me to go. I’ll answer one last thing for you, my cute dongsaeng.”

Time to go?

Leeha looked towards Toon.

There was no sign of the roaring dinosaur letting up. Leaving in this situation? Why?

Leeha quickly sorted out the questions in his head. What should he ask her now?

Should he ask why she did not kill him?

Should he ask why she directed herself to the Demon King’s Army?


Should he ask what the fifth seal of Black Bass is?

Leeha shook his head.

He could see a storm gathering in the distance. Leeha calmly, but quickly organized his thoughts and shook his head.

There was only one thing Leeha would ask.

In a single question, he had to cover all his curiosities. There was only one question that could do that.

“Who is the ‘Arcane Sniper’?”

* * *

With Leeha’s question, elizabeth smiled thinly. She stood up from her seat.

“Interesting. See you next time, dongsaeng. It will be nice if we meet with that villain, Browless.”

Even while smiling, her expression seemed somewhat melancholy.

“No, wait- the answer-”

Woosh-!

With a single leap, she disappeared from Leeha’s gaze.

A musketeer doing such a movement? Not even an assassin character should be able to leap like that, he thought.

The movement itself was beyond what a player could emulate.

“… What? What does she mean? She promised to answer, that lying old woman-”

Leeha turned his head. From the side where Kidd and Luger were, no more explosions or cloud of dust were happening.

Just like how Elizabeth left, Brown had also departed.

“No, this isn’t the time.”

Leehaaack-! Leeha spun his body and instantly took a stance, ready to fire a knee shot.


Without Elizabeth and Brown? That meant the opportunity was right now!

The target was already set. Toon, with his huge actions, didn’t move a lot from his spot and there was no need to adjust minor settings.

Distance OK

Direction OK

Wind direction and speed OK

Interference check OK

There was no need to calculate anymore. All he needed now was the courage to pull the trigger.

“Multi-Warhead Shot!”

Talcak, Leeha cast his most powerful skill and pulled the trigger of the Black Bass.

Kwakwa——————— Along with the noise and shockwave, 35 bullets headed towards Toon.

A thick cloud approaching in the distance filled the entire area of ‘The Desolate Land’.

More than a raindrop or two falling, Leeha’s multi-bullet was like sweet rain for the users!

“Ha, it’s Leeha!”

“What the, those missiles?!”

“Tie down Toon! Mages!”

“Mages isn’t working! Even if it costs my life, I’ll hold onto him!”

Kijung roared for the last time.

Toon looked at the lethal attack flying towards him. It was too late to move.

The speed of the bullet was faster than Toon’s movements.

The bullet was flying correctly. However, Leeha’s heart was throbbing.

Wasn’t it Elizabeth who predicted all of his movements? Would she have not anticipated this situation?

“No… She must have predicted it. Then why did she leave me alone?”

She told Leeha several times, “It’s too late, you have to go.”

Why did Elizabeth turn back at this moment?

“-Because someone who could replace her arrived here.”

Just when the multi-bullet was about to hit Toon, the shoulder of a gigantic dinosaur, towering 33m in height, distorted, and someone appeared out of thin air.

“Oh-o-o-ooh!”

Matching the strange shout he let out, the sound rang out over and over.

The English gentleman-like Top hat, black suit and cane. He effortlessly swung his cane, blocking the bullets.

The figure that even Toon didn’t stop was a guy all users present in the desolate land knew.

Blue, blue, Bluebeard! Le!

He was one Demon King’s Fragment causing the users to flock to the new continent.

* * *

Bailephus was the first to rush in.

He who was no longer restrained from long-distance attacks seemed to rush out as if ready to let out all his frustrations.

“You’re revealing yourself, le! Looks like you’ve a death wish!”

“Oh dear, oh dear. I’ve nothing to talk with you, lizard.”

Bluebeard swung his cane briskly, again and again.

A blue beam spilled out from the end of his cane. It was more than a few, it continued for a while.

The impact of defending against Bluebeard’s attack was akin to the sound of welding. It was similar but stronger than the previous bell-like impact sound.

Witnessing Bluebeard’s capability of eroding and melting even mana-made barriers, Bailephus’ momentum briefly faltered. Bluebeard did not miss that moment.

“I didn’t come here to play with you fellows today. There are ones who play more interesting games than before…but even if it’s me, I can’t afford to have my time stolen here.”

Bluebeard looked in the direction of Leeha. Through his scope, he made eye contact with Leeha, who was looking at him.

As if even an az of distance meant nothing, he pointed at Leeha’s exact position.

“Toon.”

“Yes, master.”

“No matter how much you haven’t recovered, this is too little. How long were you planning to play with these insects?”

『”I’m sorry.”』

With genuine regret, Toon apologized to Bluebeard creature the size of one of his molars, which was perched on his shoulder.

Bluebeard chided reproachfully, clicking his tongue, and brought out his staff once again.

All of this was observed by Leeha. And finally, he understood Brown and Elizabeth’s intentions in that moment.

『It’s too late.』

“St-stop—”

“No! Stop it!”

But Leeha’s outcry didn’t reach them.

In the moment when the users were dumbfounded by Bluebeard’s sudden appearance, his staff thrust into Toon’s body.

Toon was still in a state where he hadn’t recovered his strength.

For what reason had Bluebeard appeared in this place?

There was only one answer.

“Your ‘Soul Collection Ability’ is quite useful. I’ll give you one more chance.”

『Tha-Thank Y-You…』

Toon’s body began to convulse.

His veins bulged as though they were about to burst and his muscles stretched as if they were being torn apart.

Toon swelled irregularly, to the point where he couldn’t even construct the words to convey his gratitude properly.

At the brink of an explosive transformation, the users had to momentarily retreat. They were uncertain about the meaning behind this act that looked suspiciously like a suicidal attack.

“Damn it!” Burst———!

Leeha launched an attack.

But, as always, Bluebeard casually deflected Leeha’s bullet with his staff.

“Um-hum, indeed. This attack. You are quite an annoying one.”

And then Bluebeard inspected his staff.

Despite the end of the staff, which Leeha had once destroyed, being in a restored state, it reminded him of past events.

『”Alexander, stop Le!”』

“Split Buster!”

Alexander’s spear technique, which had torn Luger’s attack to shreds, couldn’t even touch Bluebeard.

Bluebeard easily evaded the attack, even while remaining on Toon’s shoulder.

“Oh-ho-ho, I’m sorry! I have to leave now! If you want to play with ‘Toon who regained his full power’, you’re welcome too. The more you die, the better it is for me.”

With a few jumps towards the dark clouds, he was already floating in the air. His presence had stolen their attention for just barely 10 seconds. 『Huuuuuuh———…』

Toon’s swelling physique had returned to normal. But the beast that was 33m tall had turned into a monster exceeding 45m. It was like hell itself for the players.

Not just Leeha, but all the players who had encountered Toon up until now were able to understand the current situation.

The quest was a failure.

The odds of clearing the Demon’s Base Quest had dropped abysmally close to zero.

Suddenly, iridescent splendor flashed across someone’s body.

That was the beginning of the players’ mass retreat from the front lines.

Someone foolishly tried to stand their ground and fight Toon to the very end, yet the outcome for all remained the same: death.

Standing alone amidst the barren land, Toon let out a long and piercing roar.

This bellow was a mix of pride for having successfully defended their base, which had been seized six times already, and the fighting spirit of a beast that had awakened from its slumber and regained all its power.

The report card of the second round of attacks spread across the front-line communities three hours later. 『Common Quest: ‘If you beat the grass, the snake will emerge’ Quest has ended.』

『Measuring the completion rate now.』

『Among the seven demon bases, six were successfully defended with a 30% completion rate.』

『Final Quest Verdict: Failure』

『Common Quest: ‘If you beat the grass, the snake will emerge’ Quest has failed.』

『Dinosaur ‘Toon’ has regained his full strength.』

『The remaining demon sites have begun to link up.』

『You have failed the ‘Prevent anything from blooming’ quest.』

It felt like stirring the grass needlessly had only succeeded in summoning a snake. One of the powers of the demon had bloomed flawlessly on the barren land.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Leeha’s first quest failure(I think).
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『Residential quest: You have failed the ‘If you beat the grass, the snake will emerge’ quest.』

『The failure penalty will be applied after 21 hours.』

“Damn it, damn it, damn it!” The moment the quest notification appeared, used his crystal ball.

He then went to a different destination than most other users.

While a majority of the players returned to ‘Juma’, the joint-administrative village on the new continent, Leeha headed towards where the World Tree was located.

‘This is similar to the previous King’s Assassination Protection Quest. The quest forcefully ends at an unspecified point in time!’

There was still time left for the quest.

So, what does it mean to forcefully terminate the quest?

‘It means there’s no reason to continue the quest. In other words, the main goal of the common quest…

It wasn’t to purify all the tens of thousands of demon bases.

It was to completely neutralize and put to Toon to sleep, le’s second-in-command sleeping somewhere in the demon stronghold!

In other words, the ultimate goal was to assassinate Toon.

The proof was in the progress rate. Although they had cleared six out of seven demon bases, the quest progress rate according to the Middle Earth system was only 30%.

One must infer that the one place where Toon was, accounted for 70% and was such an important location.

‘Then! At least! They should have given a hint!’

Maybe someone received one. Among the users who frequently visited the Vatican, it was possible someone received a hint from important NPCs, including the Pope.

But if that person did not share widely? If they did not share the content of the quest?

In such situations like these, one can only sigh at the pitiful state of Middle Earth.

Leeha sorted out the points quickly flowing in his head.


He had to explain to the people who had arrived at the place he did.

“What- what happened?” “Did you neutralize Toon?”

“… I’m sorry. We failed.”

The faces of the top-grade Earth Spirit Noeanen and the top-grade Wind Spirit Celestine went pale.

“So…what happened?”

“What do you mean by failure? Can you explain in detail?”

“We almost neutralized him… but Le showed up there. And he breathed his energy into Toon.”

“You mean-”

“Toon has perfectly resurrected. He has regained all his lost power”, Leeha pointed out.

“I’m sorry.”

Leeha appeared less confident. Toon had just regained his strength, and since Bluebeard Le disappeared somewhere, Bailephus thought it was worthwhile to at least fight. That was the case when Toon was alone. Alexander and Lee Jiwon’s request for a charge was also refused by Bailephus for another reason. 『However, as the ‘Arcane Sniper’ pursues me. I can’t be reckless against the High-ranking snipers and the Arcane Sniper. If you approach Toon hard here, I will die, unconditionally. One bullet would be enough.』

‘Bailephus knows too. If the Arcane Sniper really uses the “Arcane Bullet”, no creature can withstand it.’

The word came directly from the dragon’s mouth. Alexander knew about it, but this was new information for the top rangers like Lee Jiwon and Pei Wu, who were close to Toon.

Let alone, they even claimed that an Ancient Gold Dragon, despite using all defensive skills, can be killed with a single bullet… It was only natural that the eyes of some users brightened amidst the frantic retreat.

“Is this how it is? Is the world tree now extinct in this realm?”

“We can’t help it.”

Celestine comforted Noeanen, who was murmuring in frustration.

The top-grade spirits did not blame or curse Leeha. As if they knew something like this would happen someday, they looked resigned.”It’s… too wasteful to give up.”

Leeha spoke, suppressing his overwhelming emotions. These words were also meant for himself, who had failed the quest. He couldn’t just sit and watch the World Tree go extinct. It’s too wasteful to give up.

“We’ve been here since this forest was created. Don’t we know better how precious it is?”


“There are five fruits. If we scatter them in a safe place and manage them well, wouldn’t it work somehow?”

“Do you believe there exists a safe place in this land? We must preserve the fruits of the World Tree. Even just for the future day when we could replant it in a fully polished land… We have to take it to the Spirit Realm.”

“There is! There is a safe place!”

The expressions of Celestine and Noeanen changed. Leeha didn’t just blurt out his words without thinking.

“There is?”

“Yes, yes! There is! Not in this continent of Erika… But over there, in the Lope Continent!”

“Huh, interesting. And you claim there exists safe land over there… A world tree doesn’t just grow anywhere you plant it. It’s better to accumulate power in the Spirit Realm. If you gather power there and plant in this land, it grows much faster. A rate of about 1,000 times higher.”

Noeanen scoffed.

At the mention of the Spirit Realm, Leeha tilted his head. It grows more than 1,000 times faster? Then why don’t they do that? Wouldn’t it complete in just below ten months instead of 800 years?

Seeing Leeha’s puzzled face, Celestine continued.

“However, the fruits of a World Tree grown that way have only one seed. Even if it grows rapidly, the importance goes no further than preserving one seed. Only by absorbing the energy of this realm can the fruits have two seeds.”

“I see.”

Even if it grows fast and is brought to this realm, there will be no chance of reproduction. Even if the growth was fast due to the energy of the Spirit Realm, there would only be one seed from the fruits it bore. Unless it was grown for ornamental purposes, it was impossible to create a World Tree forest for the purification of demonic energy, as the Spirits desired.

Hearing the sighs of Noeanen and Celestine, Leeha hesitated and spoke.

“Still… What I mentioned earlier is not a false claim. There certainly is a safe land in the Rope Continent.”

“Where? You suggest planting it in the bustling city center?”

“Not in the center! I will take responsibility and plant the seed myself!”

“You, and who are you to say so?”

Noeanen looked a bit angry. Leeha, who was remarkably persistent, was becoming annoying. Furthermore, with the world’s energy being exchanged, the World Tree forest would quickly become polluted. Leeha was now restraining them, who must quickly return to the Spirit Realm with the World Tree fruits.

However, Leeha had a case.


And who was he?

“I am the Lord who manages a city. The area of the city I manage is far wider than this World Tree forest! And there are no monsters around. I manage it with perfect security. If I plant a seed there, what if I do? Take four of the fruits to the Spirit Realm, but please give one to me. I will certainly plant one with responsibility. I will manage it more thoroughly than anyone else.”

“Ha, you think you can do that? How would we trust and leave it to you?”

Leeha quickly opened his bag. The last item that would appeal to the spirits, if this didn’t pass, he would have to back down for real.

“This is the ‘Key to the Spirit Realm’. If I fail, I will use this key to find you and accept my punishment. If we have such a promise-”

“That, that, the Key to the Spirit Realm!”

“Key to the Spirit Realm!? Impossible! How could you – a non-Spirit Apostle- ”

” … Huh?”

Leeha held the key with a serious face, but he had to make a somewhat absurd face.

Why are they reacting like this?

‘Come to think of it… They said this was very precious. Drake was very surprised too…’

Could this key have been a free pass card to befriend the high-ranking spirits?!

Leeha recalled his memories of doing everything possible to gain their intimacy. He nodded and lowered his head.

“It’s unjust to think of”, the narrator voiced, resonating an undertone of loss.

“If Middle Earth continues to think this way, we will be unable to continue playing”, he continued gloomily.

Noeanen and Celestine stared intently at the key of the spirit realm. They then turned to face each other.

“If that’s the case, noeanen…”

“Hm…If I inform Gnoas-nim, I reckon we can actually verify whether the seed has been planted.”

Noeanen nodded in agreement and Celestine swiftly soared into the sky. When she returned shortly after, she bore in her hands five fruits, each the size of a clenched fist.

“Can we place our trust in you, Leeha?”

“Indeed, you can.”

“We are about to vanish. However, Gnoas-nim will verify everything. In the case of deception-”

“I assure you, one seed will certainly be planted. I will be careful to honor that promise. Or else, as I stated before, I will personally take a hit with this key.”

Upon hearing Leeha’s light-toned response, they displayed expressions of disbelief. Despite this, they could not contradict the power held within the『Key of the Spirit Realm』that they held in their hands.

“We request your help. For the sake of the Hyun-kye (the present world).”

“Do your best〜! If you can’t grow it properly, we will reprimand you with our sylphs!”

“Thank you. Don’t worry.”

Noeanen received the fruit from Celestine and handed it to Leeha. The moment Leeha accepted it, they began to fade away.

［You have obtained the Fruit of the World Tree.］

［The intimacy with the spirits of the Earth increases by 20%.

［The intimacy with the spirits of Wind increases by 20%］

“For all the living beings of all the continents-”

And just like that, the top-grade spirits vanished. It was almost akin to the spirits committing suicide.

“… Looks like it ended with a conditional success.”

The quest had failed.

However, Leeha received the desired rewards.

Would this be considered a success or a failure?

“Success feels somewhat inappropriate to say, considering the nature of the reward, half-hearted at best.”

However, they could not make full use of the single fruit. They had to plant at least one of the two seeds contained within it into the ground. If only to uphold their promise to the spirits.

Despite obtaining the much-coveted Fruit of the World Tree, which he had been longing for, Leeha didn’t feel particularly fulfilled.

The familiarity with the spirits was the same. The only thing that swirled in his mind was the bitterness of the quest’s failure.

‘Toon… Bluebeard…and-‘ the Three Guardians of Arcane Bullet.

The phrase, “The Guardians of Arcane Bullet”, brought three people to Leeha’s mind: Mr. Brown, miss Elizabeth, and their child.

‘Elizabeth never gave a definite answer. But based on what was revealed-‘

It was highly probable that Brown was not the one.

It was likely to be either Elizabeth or her son.

Leeha remembered the gun that Elizabeth had held. It was a gun of a shape he had never seen before.

If it could shoot Arcane Bullet, it needed to be of that level of sophistication.

‘Anyway, there is no way other than quickly enhancing my skills.’

Leeha, with the determination to repay the frustration and anger of the day, teleported to the Lair of Bahamut.

About 5 hours after Leeha disappeared, the land where the Forest of the World Tree was located started to darken.

“Oh, oh… They truly saved it!”

“Well, it doesn’t feel much like a rescue. Anyway, I have returned, lord Bahamut.”

“Give it here. I’ll quickly create the growth accelerator you desire.”

While observing Bahamut grinning like a playful elderly man, Leeha shook his head. Blaugrunn, who had followed Leeha’s movement, stared at him.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Note: Arcane Bullet have multiple meaning two of them can mean Arcane Bullet Bullet or Magical Bullet. That is why I will keep it as Arcane Bullet.
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“Leeha-nim…”

“Why so? Are you not going to give it to me?”

Leeha looked alternately at Bahamut’s face and the quest window.

This was precisely why he felt uneasy about having the fruit of the World Tree in his hands.

【Radical Growth’s Shadow-2】

Content : Deliver the ‘World Tree’s Fruit’ to Bahamut within 150 days of acquiring the ingredient item (Time remaining : 68 days)

Reward : Useable item 『Growth Accelerator』

Condition for Failure : Exceeding the deadline

Upon failure : Ingredient item ‘World Tree’s Fruit’ will disappear

“So，what happens if we remove a seed from the World Tree’s Fruit?”

“What?”

The quest explicitly called for the delivery of the World Tree’s fruit. However, had Leeha not promised the spirits? One of the two seeds within the fruit must be planted in front of Citadel Gaza!

‘How will it go if I explain carefully…?’

Leeha told Bahamut all about his experiences with the spirits and on the new continent.

Bahamut couldn’t help but lose his composure when Leeha mentioned that Toon had fully recovered and the high-ranking spirits had “returned to the spirit world.”

This was the first time Leeha was seeing Bahamut, who had managed to remain calm during the Kuzugu’nac incident, expressing such a dark visage and he was a bit surprised.

“So that’s why the mana of Bailephus was so weak…

It seemed that Alexander and Bailephus had yet to arrive at Bahamut’s Lair.

Leeha waited momentarily until Bahamut decided to speak again.


The Platinum Dragon and lord of the metal dragons quickly regained his lightly smiling expression.

That sitting on a throne requires good expression management is something he knew very well.

“You’ve had a lot of hardship. High-ranking spirit fellows are vastly disagreeable, let alone dealing with such creatures.”

“Well，it wasn’t easy.”

“Ha! Leeha-nim! Using such an impudent tone towards the Lord-”

“What can I do about the truth? Isn’t lying more impolite?”

Leeha laughed as he tussled Blaugrunn’s hair, who struggled in response. Blaugrunn was still unable to counter Leeha’s logical(?) rhetoric.

”So… as I mentioned earlier, I must remove one seed, can you make the growth accelerator with that?”

“You can make a growth accelerator with a fruit with only one seed remaining. However, you will not be able to achieve the result you desire.”

Leeha was about to exclaim ‘Woah’! but paused abruptly. He couldn’t achieve the result he wanted? If he created a growth accelerator, wouldn’t that be the result he wanted?

He wasn’t sure whether to express joy or sadness.

“The result I want…

“You’ve forgotten what your goal was? Weren’t you trying to grow this guy into an adult?”

“Ah- Ahhhh?!”

Leeha despair. What the heck! It means that all the running around was in vain!

The moment he obtained the Water of World from Poseidon, everything he did to receive the World Tree’s Fruit through the top-ranking spirits turned into a futile effort.

‘If I break the promise with the spirits-… no, no. That could be the worst choice.’

Leeha’s mind whirred negatively, but quickly came to a halt.

He remembered the cautionary words from Noeanen as well. The Earth Spirit King Gnoas said that he would know when the seeds of the World Tree’s fruit were properly planted.

If he did something inappropriate, he would definitely be despised by them forever.


Bahamut had an ominous grin on his face, as if he understood what Leeha was thinking.

“The implication is that there will be insufficient energy to grow the dragon. Ah! Speaking of planting the seeds of the World Tree’s fruit, how about spraying the growth accelerator on it? The spirits would love it!”

Bahamut was gifted in adding fuel to the fire.

“Eeeaah！Just make it！I want to leave here quickly–!”

Bahamut roared with laughter at Leeha’s protest. However, it was a forced laughter.

Toon’s full recovery and the exchange of energies between the Demon Lands in the Erika continent was no light matter. Thus, the Lord intentionally played the high-spirated joke.

* * *

“Paytor-ssi!”

“Yes, lord.”

Leeha came right back to Gaza City.

It was quite frustrating staying at Bahamut’s lair, but there was one more thing that he actually needed to do.

“Hmm, do we have some farmland around our castle?”

“Which kind of farm are you talking about?”

“I’m planning to plant a big tree.”

“There is some fallow land on the left side just from the north gate. The area is roughly this much.”

Paytor immediately drew out a map to show Leeha. It was a place close to the castle gate, but not visited often by users. This was exactly what Leeha was looking for.

‘Phew, I was worried if we didn’t have any land. I thought I might have to plant it inside the castle. How fortunate.’

Shouldn’t the castle make the most out of development approval for maximum profit! It was such a waste to use any part of the land, even for a World Tree, for farming.

‘The World Tree could be a landmark for our city…but that’s going to take at least 800 years, doesn’t it?’

Does that make any sense?


Leeha tilted his head and suddenly thought of a bad (?) idea.

‘Yeah, plant one here first … and later go to the spirit world to get another seed of the World Tree there?!’

There could be only one seed of the World Tree per 10-month cycle in the Spirit World. It doesn’t reproduce because the only seed it bears cannot, but as an ornamental?!

‘Hehehe…hehehe. I can’t do that for now, but someday…

If we just let the seeds that are used for reproduction grow slowly in the ground and care for the fully-grown World Trees, Gaza City’s name will spread across the Roppe continent.

“Ahem! Declare that fallow land as a Special Management Area right now.”

“By Special Management Area, you mean-”

“Include it within our security patrol area, put up fences all around the fallow land. Please prevent ordinary citizens from getting close as much as possible. You understand what I’m saying?”

Giving it a plausible name, Leeha gave instructions to Paytor. The talented domestic NPC fully understood even with just a brief explanation.

Leeha left the Lord’s office and headed directly to the fallow land on the north side, to the place that will be declared as a ‘Special Management Area’ by today.

“Why don’t you just order that guy to do this?”

“Hmm, it’s better for me to do the planting.”

“Are you scared of Noenane? That it might get postponed and you’ll get scolded.”

“Ho, who’s going to get scolded!”

As soon as he left the office, Blaugrunn grinned and joked about it. Obviously, he was trying to lighten Leeha’s mood.

Blaugrunn did not participate in the total attack on the Demon’s Base but knew plenty through the expressions Leeha showed, the words he said to Bahamut, and through the information exchange among the dragons.

“But how are you going to use the growth stimulant? I turned out not to be able to use it. Are you really going to sprinkle it on the real seed of the World Tree?”

“……There’s no way. It was so hard to obtain it.”

“Then?”

“Hmm… I have a plan. But for now, please dig some ground to plant the seed.”

Leeha tilted his head and stood in front of the fallow land. Blaugrunn nodded and cast a spell.

『Dig』

Fwaaaah—!

With a single spell used lightly, the ground of the fallow land was excavated down to a depth of 4 meters.

Leeha looked at Blaugrunn, struggling to close his gaping mouth. The piles of dirt were floating in the air.

“Um, Blaugrunn-ssi?”

“Yes?”

“Do you know what it means to ‘plant a seed’?”

“Of course. Now, throw it in.”

Blaugrunn looked at Leeha with a ‘what’s the matter’ expression. Leeha smiled at her.

“Right here?”

“Yes.”

“Throw a seed, the size of three fingers, into a 4-meter deep pit?”

“Yes.”

“That… I’m glad that dragons don’t farm.”

“What do you mean?”

Blaugrunn stared at Leeha with a frown. Was I being mocked? That was the look in her eyes, but with such ignorance, how could she be mocked.

Leeha let out a sigh and bowed his head.

“Ah… Alright. Please lay down this land you are holding on – you have hoisted – and… dig down about 15 cm. Goodness, duya. Why are there so many headache-inducing people lately? I will have to take a break and get some sleep.”

Things were supposed to unfold smoothly after the operation in Hong Kong, but for some reason, there wasn’t a single bright light in his days.

“Uh-uh…”

Blaugrunn puffed his cheeks, but still paid close attention to Leeha’s words.

Not long after, as the monitor seed was properly planted in the ground, the nearly desolate wasteland sparkled radiantly, exuding a green hue.

‘Once I go out and come back in… It’s about time to go out for rehabilitation treatment. After my evening treatment and sleep, by the next log-in, the full penalty for the failure of the common quest would have been revealed.

‘I have a rough estimate. But, there will be much work ahead. Including the uses of growth-promoting agents. There are a few things I’ve been considering; I think it’s time I began.’

Leeha scratched his head and bid farewell to Blaugrunn.

* * *

“Hwajung, what are you doing? You didn’t even turn on the lights.”

“Unni.”

Ram Hwayeon, who just barely finished her tight work schedule, was surprised when she saw the inside of the room.

The reason being that Ram Hwajung was sitting huddled up with her knees drawn in, alone in the room without even a light on.

“What happened?”

“… Nothing.”

Ram Hwajung hid her face between her knees.

Ram Hwayeon, who would certainly pick up on such obvious signs, thought it was quite a transparent action, particularly among siblings.

Flashing a light smile, Ram Hwayeon reached out and gently patted Ram Hwajung’s back of the head.

“What’s wrong? Did something happen in Middle Earth? Is it because you couldn’t catch Toon?”

“It’s annoying.”

At Ram Hwayeon’s words, Ram Hwajung instantly responded.

Just as she thought, it was Toon. Ram Hwayeon nodded in understanding.

Most of the users were consumed with worry and anxiety due to the failing quest.

But the rankers were different. Rather than passive feelings like worry and insecurity, it was active emotions like anger and resentment that made them seethe with rage.

Ram Hwajung, who was currently ranked 7th, was no different.

“Even with Alexander and Lee Jiwon together, they still couldn’t catch that thing. They should have just swallowed their greed-”

“Oppa didn’t come to help. It’s annoying.”

“-Uh?”

Ram Hwayeon, who was about to comfort Ram Hwajung, faltered after hearing her response. Was Ram Hwajung annoyed not because they couldn’t catch Toon but because she is disappointed in Ha Leeha?”

“……Leeha?”

“Yes. Oppa. He aimed for the dinosaur. If I had properly frozen it”

Tears were welling up in Ram Hwajung’s doll-like eyes. Looking at her face, with her small lips furiously biting down, Ram Hwayeon felt taken aback.

‘I was a bit annoyed too, analyzing the effects of the failure of the quest.

However, was that the emotion that had been rocking her younger sister, Hwajung, even more fiercely? And not because the quest failed, but because she couldn’t help Ha Leeha?

“Unni.”

“Yes, Hwajung.”

“Help me.”

“You… you’re asking for my help? Are you asking me to help?”

Ram Hwajung nodded as she looked up at Ram Hwayeon with tear-filled eyes. Her eyes looked like they were going to spill tears at any moment, but she was stifling her tears.

‘Oh my, Hwajung is-‘ She doesn’t ask for help from anyone. She doesn’t really listen to anyone’s words. The youngest daughter of Ram Family was so stubborn in her own way.

The first to approach Ram Hwajung was due to Ram Hwayeon’s purpose of operating Middle Earth for ‘business purposes’. She had a hunch that her youngest sister’s personality had changed significantly.

(To be continued…)
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“How can I help you?”

“You have leveled up.”

“If it’s leveling up-”

“I’ll surpass. Level 300. I’ll learn. More skills.”

The tears that had been on the verge of falling were now completely gone.

To Ram Hwajung, who was spitting out words one by one, Ram Hwayeon was burning with determination and anger beyond imagination.

“Fine. I’ll support you 150%.”

Ram Hwajung’s growth is also the growth of the Hwahong Guild.

There was no way Ram Hwayeon would refuse this request. Recently, she had been somewhat frustrated as Ram Hwajung had not been trying to level up.

“I’ll contact Jachung immediately. I’ll give you everything you need, from control of hunting grounds to simple mobbing, and item support. What do you need the most?”

“Mana. Make sure I never run out of mana.”

“OK. I’ll try to find a way to inject an unlimited amount of Mana into you Hwajung, no matter what kind of magic, what level of power.”

The common quest’s failure penalty has not yet been revealed.

But the mere fact that they failed was already changing the playing field in Middle Earth.

Thump-!

“Whoa!”

“What?!”

They were startled by the sudden opened door. But the person who came in was also surprised to see them.

“Ram Hwayeon?”


“What, you’re not on Middle Earth? I thought you’d definitely be logged in.”

With her round eyes, Ram Hwayeon looked alternately at them and the Middle Earth device.

The current time was 1:20 in the afternoon. They had finished eating and still had about two hours to spare before physical therapy.

And ever since the day she installed Middle Earth, she was always logged in at this time.

“… Well, how can you just barge in like that? I could’ve been sprawled out in an embarrassing position. Did you see that?

However, that was not important to them.

Why did Ram Hwayeon come in at this time? She was practically defenseless except for the brief moment she washed up in the morning!

Surely, always seeing her in a scruffy state is similar, but still, it’s embarrassing.

At their sharp question, Ram Hwayeon’s face flushed slightly.

“No, knocking wouldn’t have made a difference! I was trying to call you once I came in! And you weren’t that hideous-”

“What?”

“No, no… never mind.”

It was interesting what she was trying to say. As they narrowed their gaze and cocked his head, Ram Hwayeon violently waved her hands. The Middle Earth device has a semi-transparent section intended for checking if there’s a person inside.

And through there, Ram Hwayeon had always been checking in on them.

In other words, the embarrassment Ram Hwayeon is feeling now is similar to being caught peeping.

‘Damn, I missed today’s healing point.’

Seeing them peacefully logged into Middle Earth had recently been her pleasure…….

Having them peacefully playing the game next to her while she was doing simple paperwork with a cup of coffee was quite an exciting time for her.

‘They’ll go ballistic if they find out I’ve taken few photos.’

Moreover, because she had a secret that she absolutely couldn’t tell them, Ram Hwayeon’s face turned red.


“Anyway, what are you doing?”

“Just some research. I talked with Kijung too.”

“Did you see the failure penalty?”

“I heard about it from Kijung.”

Ram Hwayeon found their nonchalant reaction curious.

In a time when the entire Middle Earth community is in an uproar, not only was it strange that they weren’t logged into Middle Earth, but it was also odd how laid-back they were after hearing about the failure penalty?

“It’s suspicious how you’re talking about it like you’re just watching a fire from across the river.”

“No. It’s more like I knew that there would be a fire across the river. Ah, sigh…There’s nothing we can do now. With just playing normally, it’s definitely not enough anymore.”

“What are you talking about?”Only then did Ram Hwayeon realize that Leeha was writing something.

On a neatly printed paper on the table, Leeha was busy handwriting something.

The trouble of finding a translator on the small screen of his smartphone as he had to write in English. Ram Hwayeon saw this over Leeha’s shoulder. And then he was shocked.

“You, you, you-”

“Hey, haven’t you been calling me ‘you’ so far? Isn’t it strange to call me ‘you’?”

“Are, are you serious right now? Leeha, do you know the meaning of this?!”

“I can read.”

Leeha was smiling at Ram Hwayeon’s reaction. The word written at the top of the paper he picked up was simple.

『Middle Earth Synchronization Rule Enhancement Application』

A good item, a cool skill, does not necessarily mean the quality of play changes.

Leeha thought that to do such a thing, it was necessary to change the most fundamental settings.

‘In that way, we can… withstand what’s coming.’


What was once a choice had become a necessity. It was absolutely necessary to survive in Middle Earth.

“Synchronization rule isn’t just beneficial! It’s-”

“It will put more stress on our brains. Even a light blow from a goblin or kobold won’t feel light anymore.”

“Don’t you remember that Toon monster we saw?! If you get caught in its teeth, who knows what will happen?!”

“Umm… that would truly be awful.”

Leeha chuckled as he continued to fill out the paperwork. There was a lot to write and a lot of confirmation things to submit. Moreover, what Ram Hwayeon was currently ranting about was all he had heard while talking to Kijung.

Kijung: Hyung, do you know why I can hold my rank well?

Leeha: What is it?

Kijung: It really hurts when I get hit. I have no choice but to find a place that doesn’t hurt.

‘He said that without a hint of humor. That Kijung bastard…

That simply meant he was serious.

The measure of pain may exceed Leeha’s imagination. However, he had already prepared for this. Above all, he doesn’t allow his dignity to be more secure.

‘Kidd would do too. His pained expression in the past, he must have increased his fairytale rule considerably.’

Would Luger’s basic statistics remain the same? Not likely.

While Leeha thought he was making a lot of progress, he realized he had been left far behind.

His strength was due to external factors.

Thanks to Blaugrunn and Jellypong, he could show unique strength compared to others.

‘But what about pure physical abilities? I… well, maybe I’ll fit in the middle ranks? I might even get knocked out of the outsiders.’

Even in the moment, Ram Hwayeon was passionately trying to convince Leeha, but none of it was heard by Leeha.

“Sigh…well, if I knew this, I wouldn’t have torn up that paper.”

“Hehe, you get it now?”

A man who follows through once he’s made up his mind, that’s Ha Leeha. Eventually, Ram Hwayeon stopped trying to convince him. No, in some ways, she may have made the choice like a business person.

Give what you can, take what you need to.

“So, how many percent are you going to increase the fairytale rule?”

If it’s impossible to stop him from increasing it, at least make him raise it to the minimum.

Of course, Leeha knew that she was worried about his safety.

That’s why his answer was also uneasy.

“100%”

“What?”

“There’s no point in vaguely raising it to 60%, 70%. I want to implement my perfect sensations now. Only then… can I aim for what comes next.”

“Quiet! What’s next? Do you know how hard it was to maintain Hwajung’s synchronization rate at 75%, and now you’re going to push for 100%? Haven’t you heard of the death incident in Middle Earth? There’s a reason there’s a synchronization limit!”

Of course, I knew about it. He had talked about it for a long time, warning Leeha about the dangers by citing the Middle Earth death incident as a precedent.

Everyone who regularly played Middle Earth knew about the death of a user who set their synchronization rate to 100%. It happened before Leeha started playing the game, and it was seen as a sudden, unexpected accident.

The user hadn’t died during PvP between users, or while monster hunting.

They were participating in a raid in a lava zone, slipped, and fell right into the magma… Damage-over-time (DOT) skills, which inflict damage over a certain period of time, have a duration. You can either extinguish the fire using a status abnormality dispel or casting healing or water magic.

But how can you rescue someone who fell directly into the magma in a lava zone?

The pain of being burned, described as among the worst for a human, left the user in such a state of shock that they couldn’t even use a teleportation scroll. In the end, they died because their brain couldn’t bear the excruciating pain anymore.

The Middle Earth developer, Gufl, had to endure severe criticism and was ultimately forced to set a synchronization limit, which remains in place today.

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi.”

“Huh?”

Ram Hwayeon, who had been yelling for a while, is now breaking out in a sweat.

Leeha suddenly feels his heart fluttering. What can he say at this moment to the woman who cares so much about him? He stands up from his seat.

Did Ram Hwayeon think that Leeha was going to scold her? She takes a defensive posture as he suddenly stands up.

Nevertheless, he walks towards her.

“What… what are you doing?… Oh.”

Then he pulls Ram Hwayeon into a warm embrace. Flustered, she leans into him.

“Thank you. Always. And trust me. I won’t let you down.”

Ram Hwayeon was left speechless.

 As she clutches awkwardly at the papers in her hand, she slowly, very slowly, eases into the embrace.

What was Ram Hwayeon thinking? It’s hard to say she was completely satisfied.

What fills Leeha’s heart at this moment is mostly the feeling of gratitude. This was the woman who had called him to Hong Kong out of concern for him. She arranged the schedule of the doctor who wanted to treat him and even now she was doing her very best to prevent him from rushing into possible danger.

‘It’s like a mother, but… hmm… it’s not exactly the same, is it?’.

While mostly filled with gratitude, Leeha also feels strange, peculiar emotions that he can’t exactly describe. Whether he recognizes what those are or not isn’t clear. Reality sets in and he suddenly feels embarrassed about his impulsive action. Compelled by discomfort, he quickly lets go of Ram Hwayeon and steps back.

“Well, enough, right?! Um, gratitude… I’ll properly express my gratitude later, okay?”

“What?”

With a hasty tone and flustered manner, Leeha clumsily crafts a poor response, before reclining again in his seat and fiddling with his square pen.

“Well, um, I have to fill in this form, so if there’s nothing else, could you excuse me? If someone watches me, I can’t write on it- properly, that is…”

But when he turns his head to look at Ram Hwayeon, he finds himself thinking that the Fire Mage from Middle Earth must have jumped into reality.

“Do as you please, die or live.”

Ram Hwayeon picked up the papers that had fallen on the floor and leaves the hotel room.

Slam!

The sound of the door closing makes Leeha’s gut flutter nervously.

“…… Did I say something wrong?”

Just because his lower body recovered doesn’t mean his romantic skill had improved. After anxiously pacing for a while, Leeha ends up focusing on his documents.

Only after he had scanned and sent all the documents to the Middle Earth headquarters he could log in. As soon as he entered, he was greeted by the hologram notification.

The notification about the punishment for failing the common quest that had caused a commotion in the community was in front of him.

(To be continued…)
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『Failure Penalty: Common Quest: If you beat the grass, the snake will emerge』

The ‘Forest of the World Tree’, which was preventing the exchange of magical energy, was trampled by Toon’s massive power. Now, magic would spread unimpeded across the New Continent Erika, north, south, east, and west. The Demon King’s Army were becoming even more energized by this news from across the sea.

『The Forest of the World Tree has become extinct across the entire Old Continent Lope, and New Continent Erika.』

『The seeds of the World Tree are preparing to sprout somewhere in the Old Continent Lope.』

『All races born from the demonic land of the New Continent Erika have become 30% stronger.』

『All monsters on the Old Continent Lope have become 25% stronger.』

『There is no change in the experience and rewards gained by killing monsters.』

Clearly, Toon, the second heart of Bluebeard Le, is following some sort of directive from Le. To maximize the effectiveness of Toon’s ‘Soul Gathering’ ability, he is trying to awaken his minions. If Toon’s march is not properly stopped, every architectural civilization on the New Continent will be destroyed. The Paleos, too, are losing sleep at the news of Toon’s resurrection. 『At a certain probability, monster waves are approaching the ‘Four-nation Jointly Managed Village’ on the New Continent Erika.』

『All Paleos in the New Continent Erika, who have no existing affinity, are hostile towards players.』

『Depending on affinity and common reputation values in the New Continent Erika, the attitudes of the Paleos will differ.』

『If you approach a paleo settlement without holding any affinity or common reputation in the New Continent Erika, you will be attacked.』

Meanwhile, the health of the Pope who had been directing all of these operations has worsened. Every human who believes in the main god Ahlo spends day and night praying for the Pope’s speedy recovery. However, in contrast to their good intentions, there are also people within the papacy who see this as an opportunity. 『The influence of the Ezwen Church on other countries has weakened.』

『Communication with the NPCs inside the papacy and with other players has become difficult.』

“Damn… what is this? What’s – ” Kijung had heard of the basic circumstances. Monsters getting stronger, the possibility of the New Continent’s kingdoms being in danger.

That was enough for Leeha to easily anticipate and calmly accept with a nod.

Leeha: Kijung! Why is the penalty so big?

Kijung: That’s what I told you.

Leeha: You summarized all of this in just two lines?

Kijung: I can’t remember it all, how am I supposed to tell you all of it. At any rate, how’s Donghwa’s situation?


Leeha: Ah…

Leeha exhales a sigh and then has a brief conversation with Kijung. Of course, he conveniently omitted any parts pertaining to Ram Hwayeon. After ending the whispering conversation, Leeha went through the notification window meticulously.

While several things were within his expectations, others were beyond his wildest imagination.

‘I expected monsters to get stronger. After all, it’s a penalty, and of course, they wouldn’t provide more experience. But the Paleos…’

Although it is not clearly stated, it was clear that the Paleos consider Toon’s rise to power is the humans’ fault for coming to the New Continent.

『Eventually, this penalty alone strengthens the forces of the Demon King faction. In addition, the Pope’s health is deteriorating.』

This was one more headache.

‘Now, getting quests from there and carrying them out will also become difficult.’

This was a big setback for Leeha’s plan to stick to the papacy to extract the “Argos’ Eye”. Of course, it wasn’t just that.

Until now, the Ezwen Papacy had been leading the plans to capture the Demon King’s Fragment on the New Continent. What does another penalty mean that weakens the influence that the papacy has on other countries?

‘If only the Pope would take his eyes off the New Continent for a moment…’

The thing that Leeha had been worried about was going to happen. Now, the power struggle is only happening within Juma Village, but if the Pope can no longer interfere, uninformed aristocrats and politicians of the old continent, who still aren’t aware of the situation of the New Continent, might start reckless developments and looting within the crucial areas of the New Continent in order to secure some land.

“What a seriously crazy quest.”

Leeha let out another sigh and closed the hologram window.

A curtain falls and the world changing dramatically is a natural occurrence. What’s important right now isn’t to worry about things that cannot be intervened at this moment.

– Blaugrunn-ssi, can you come here for a second?

Shwaaaah…!

A turquoise light flashed beside Leeha. Blaugrunn immediately responded to Leeha’s call.

“Yes. What can I do fot you?”

“Actually, I’m thinking about using a growth stimulant now.”


“Lord said that I couldn’t use-”

“No, I’m not going to use it on you, Blaugrunn-ssi. But I think I’d be at ease if you’re by my side.”

Blaugrunn, who was making a face as if saying, ‘Don’t make me repeat myself’, suddenly puffed out his chest and shoulders, proudly.

“Finally, Leeha-ssi, you’ve recognized my worth. I thought you would realize it sooner since you’re an intelligent person.”

“Haha, you have quite a knack for humor. What’s with that pose, like someone who’s been to the gym for three days.”

“Gym?”

Leeha simply laughed at Blaugrunn’s question.

The place where he re-logged in was still near the north gate of Gaza City, near the shelter where the seed of the World Tree was planted.

In a place where there were very few users around, Leeha took out the growth stimulant.

“Step back. I need to call the one who’s going to ingest this.”

Just from Leeha’s simple statements – stepping back and calling soneone who’s going to eat – Blaugrunn figured out what Leeha intended to use the growth stimulant on.

“… Leeha-ssi, you couldn’t possibly be planning to give it to- that arrogant bear cub-”

『Soul Link』

And he cast the skill. A red light exploded.

“Kroo-”

“Shh, shh! Be quiet, Koma!”

“-ong.”

The cub, which had just materialized in the present world, wanted to roar with all it had. However, it had no choice but to suppress its breath due to Leeha’s warning.

“Grrrhh.”

“Are you really going to give that precious growth stimulant to this uncouth beast?”


As soon as Koma, who was filled with air, had a cheap shot, Blaugrunn made a disgruntled face. In any case, Koma could only smile as it approached him.

“Krowww, krowww- Krong!”

“Hey, get your paw off me, you beast! Do you even know who I am?”

“Krong? Krowwwww.”

Blaugrunn slapped Koma’s paw away, but it remained unmoved. The cub found Blaugrunn’s frustrated expression rather endearing, and just kept looking at him.

“Little one.”

“Krung?”

“I’m not sure what will happen after you consume this – but you certainly won’t die. Drink up.”

“Kro, Kron? Kron!”

You won’t die, but you’re not sure what will happen? The cub shut its mouth tight at the sound of that. But it was hopeless against Leeha, who was already gleefully approaching him.

“Krooo- Krowww-!”

“Drink this, you fool! This is extremely precious! Ugh, ugh-”

“Kron, kron-”

As Leeha and Koma wrestled over it for a moment, Blaugrunn who was sighing at the side, intervened.

“Oh, well. Calling me was an excellent decision after all. 『Power Hold』.”

“Kro, Krow?! Kr?”

“Phew. Why does a damn bear have such strength? Thank you, Blaugrunn-ssi.”

If a field boss ‘Fire Bear’ does not have strength, who would?Leeha did what needed to be done. While the helpless child was frozen, he forced a growth stimulant into its mouth.

“Now, swallow it. Swallow!”

“Grrr- Grrrrrr!”

The child struggled with all its might, but it couldn’t resist Blaugrunn’s magic.

Immobile, the growth stimulant trickled into Koma’s mouth. It was impossible not to swallow it.

Instinctively, the bear’s throat accepted the food.

“Done, it ate. Blaugrunn-ssi! Quick, come over here!”

Leeha hastily distanced himself from Koma. But Blaugrunn glanced back at Leeha with a lethargic expression.

“It’s the Power Hold anyway. It’s different from a general Hold. To break this magic without a Dispel-”

“… Ch, change.”

“-at least a dozen ogres combined strength is required- What?”

Grrrrr- Grrrrr.

Even Blaugrunn was momentarily surprised by Koma’s groaning. Leeha looked at Koma with worried eyes.

He remembered the reaction when Blaugrunn had taken the growth stimulant.

‘Did something go wrong because it was half-dose? When Blaugrunn took it, he just popped and changed… That wasn’t such a painful scene! ‘

The child’s body seemed to shudder with convulsions. The fur of the massive bear shone intermittently.

“Oh… The combined strength of a dozen ogres is needed-”

The Power Hold was crumbling, making a grinding noise.

The child’s convulsing muscles were slowly but surely moving.

“Uh, something’s wrong. Blaugrunn-ssi! Do you have Heal?”

“Of course, I have a Heal but- this doesn’t seem like a situation that can be resolved with Heal?”

“Then that- Hold? Try to release that magic! I can’t just watch Koma in so much pain- Ugh!”

Whooosh—————–

Suddenly, Koma was engulfed in flames.

The Power Hold was completely shattered, and Koma, now free, took a deep breath and roared.

It was very much like the roar of Toon.

Even Leeha was startled by the unusual flaming roar.

“Fi, fire- the fire is changing! The color of the fire is changing!”

But what was surprising was what happened next. The blaze that was burning red gradually began to change. The spreading red turned from orange to yellow, through white to ultimately a pure white radiance.

‘I remember! The flame magic used by Bailephus ‘

Leeha remembered the flame magic whose destructive power changed according to the temperature of the burning flame.

But his surprise didn’t end there.

The light that was so bright he had to turn his head away had gradually taken on a different color.

“It’s hot! ‘Resist Fire’!”

By that time, even Blaugrunn had to retreat, casting a fire resistance spell on himself and Leeha.

Leeha was watching the light that dyed the floor blue.

Bailephus who used the white flame.

‘And the one that used a stronger flame magic…

Who was that being that used an even stronger flame magic than Bailephus? The fire resistance barrier created by Blaugrunn’s magic began to sizzle.

‘Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’shi.’

It was a juvenile’s body, but it was Blaugrunn with the power of an adult. His fire resistance magic was able to melt the intense heat in an instant!

The flame that began to turn blue was now emitting a complete blue light. It was stable and a flickering blue light.

(To be continued…)
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Blaugrunn and Leeha were initially cowed by the heat, but after it changed to a blue hue, they no longer felt the heat.

『Hmm… A nostalgic smell has drawn me out… What is this?』

Blaugrunn and Leeha barely looked up to see a little figure. Even if a child were to speak, it wouldn’t have such a voice.

What they heard was a woman’s voice.

“Thi- thi- thi- thi-”

『ThiThiThiThi? Is that your names?』

It was slightly bigger than Blaugrunn’s current appearance. Despite her small stature, nearly the size of a bear’s foreleg, she emanated a calm and dignified aura, clearly permeating around her.

Leeha could guess her identity, but because it was too different from his expectation, he could not be certain.

“Ifrit! The Fire Spirit King, ifrit!”

“Really?!”

It was Blaugrunn who confirmed it.

In Ifrit’s hand was a long pipe.

Leeha stared blankly at her. The sight of a 16-year-old girl smoking a pipe the size of a bear was bewildering.

Not to mention, her outfit and hair were all in a shade of blue, which she emitted, making her overall appearance a blue-toned one.

‘If Ram Hwajung’s appearance and Ram Hwayeon’s personality were mixed, wouldn’t it be like her?’

For Leeha, it was not an exaggeration to see Ifrit this way. The bizarre combination of a young girl, a big pipe, fire, and blue color possessed an irresistible charm.

While Leeha was flabbergasted, Blaugrunn, with full compliments, spoke to Ifrit.

“Pleasure to meet the Fire Spirit King. I am Blaugrunn.”

『A bronze dragon? You’re a juvenile. Did you create this? I doubt Elaim, Gnoas, and Sylphid would have allowed this.』


“I did not create this. The person who did is right here.”

『Ah, a human! Right. You are Komdori’s (cute bear’s) soul mate?』

At last, ifrit looked at Leeha.

Leeha blinked at her sudden sharp stare.

“Ye-yes. Hello, I’m Leeha. Komdori owes you.”

『What? Pfft. Naturally, salamander always struggles. I wonder how you tamed his appetite, considering he always seeks something to eat in the spirit world.』

“I-I’m truly sorry. Because of his growth… I tried it once… I seem to have inadvertently caused trouble.”

『Sorry? Trouble?』

Ifrit stared blankly at Leeha’s confused expression and then burst into hearty laughter.

Her laughter, contrary to her chic, wise and chilly demeanor as a Fire Spirit King, filled the void refreshingly.

『You’re an interesting one! Yes, yes. I understand why Elaim, Gnoas, and Sylphid allowed you to create such an item.』

“Ah, about that item, there is something I need to tell you. I don’t know why you came out, but that is something we used to enhance ‘Komdori’s’ level and grade…”

With the mention of the growth enhancer, Leeha regained his nerve. The drastic change from his earlier personality didn’t miss Ifrit’s keen sight.

『Hmm, so?』

“Not ‘so’… From what I can see, our Komdori hasn’t changed at all. I wonder if you used it, ifrit.”

This worry had been bothering Leeha since Ifrit first appeared. The growth enhancer strengthens its target.

The recipient Leeha used was ‘Komdori’, the fire bear. But why did Ifrit appear? There was no explanation!

『Seems like you don’t fully understand. Our Komdori only maintains his form for a short time, he’s not actually a living being. You should already know he’s dead.』

“Tha- that is…”

Even by using the Soul Link skill, ‘Komdori’s’ level didn’t change anymore.


『Only your level weight is added. According to the skill description, you should know that Komdori physically died in the Middle Earth world. The growth of this damned toy-like being can’t be further stimulated. It’s a great idea. But, this thing, even tens of thousands of essences of the world tree created this damned toy. Who did it? Bahamut did it for one night? I bet Elaim once again made a fuss.』

“The leader of the Dragon Tribe, and the sole Platinum Dragon who safeguards and enforces justice, lord Bahamut, created this potion.”

『”Wow, bronze, you really have some personality. Oh, yeah. Let’s assume it’s so. Ah! Where was I?”』 Ifrit drew deeply on the filter of her cigar.

A moment later, seeing her puffing smoke, Leeha had to ponder what kind of item she was using, but right now, the matter at hand was more crucial.

“You said the growth promoter was neutralized when used on Koma.”

『”Neutralize… it’s neutralized, but it’s not exactly neutralized.”』

“Pardon?”

『Our little bear has contracted with the Salamander. In addition, what kind of being are you? You have an affinity with all spirits?! Even though you’re not a spirit mage… it might be because of you that the toy acted a bit strange.』

“Did it act strangely, you say…?”

『Our baby, no, our Salamander… Phew…… Hey! Come out here!』

Suddenly, ifrit yelled. The little creature standing behind her flinched. From the head of the fire bear, something flared up.

Then a man, or rather, a youth, who was slightly taller than Blaugrunn, jumped over the small figure and ran out.

His long, bleached hair combed back, a long scar on his cheek, the way he chewed something and squinted while inspecting his surroundings.

Although his speech was a bit stuttering, unlike the neat and innocent-looking Blaugrunn, the youth’s exterior was…

‘Is he a delinquent?’

Leeha reminded of a ‘friend’ from his third year of middle school class.

『Didn’t I tell you to let me know in advance if something was going to happen?』

“How would I know to tell you? Who would have known he’d bring such an item?”

『You little… Can’t you talk properly?』

“Ah, leave it be! I’m not a little Salamander anymore.”


As Ifrit approached, she firmly grabbed his head, but the boy quickly, swatted Ifrit’s hand away.

‘Goodness… it’s clearly a fire spirit from the looks of it.’

But to display such an attitude toward the king of fire spirits?!

Leeha wasn’t the only one who noticed, as Ifrit’s previously bizarre and talkative demeanor had completely changed.

『Oh, is that so? You’ve become Ignis, and now you think you’re too good for me? Do you want to know what it feels like for a fire spirit to burn to death? Or should I call Shellea? Want to get a taste of her flames?』

For an instant, blue light flickered from Ifrit’s body.

No matter how rebellious the youth is, he couldn’t do anything in the face of such power. The boy, now called Ignis, spat through gritted teeth in frustration.

‘He’s insane…?’

While Leeha watched anxiously, ifrit sighed heavily, lowered her head, and met Leeha’s eyes.

『You’ll have to be responsible.』

“Wha, what?”

『It used to be an obedient and cute salamander, but you transformed it into Ignis!』

With a swish!

Suddenly a holographic window materialized in front of Leeha.

『Fire Against Fire』

Explanation: “Due to Bahamut’s strange toy, our contract with Komdori and the Salamander- no, ignis, is in jeopardy. Komdori cannot contain Ignis in his soul. Once it has evolved, it cannot be reverted back… You need to find a way to confine Ignis’s flame within Komdori to keep the contract intact. Me? Hey, I’m a Elemental King. I’m not supposed to interfere lightly! You’re responsible for your actions! But… since I like Komdori too, I’ll give you a little help. Find the ‘Fire Flower’.”

Soul mates who’ve made a contract with the fire spirit have imprisoned the fire spirit within their souls. However, due to the misuse of the ‘Growth Enhancer’, the soul mate can no longer accommodate the fire spirit in their soul!

If this continues, not only will the contract with the fire spirit be terminated, the soul mate might stop responding to the soul link. With the help of the king of fire spirits, ifrit, let us stabilize the soul mate’s condition.

Content: Obtain ‘Fire Flower’ within 30 days and deliver it to Ifrit

Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: Upon expiration of the deadline, using the skill 『Soul Link』

Consequences upon Failure: Termination of the contract between the soul mate and the fire spirit

50% increased chance that the soul mate will not respond to 『Soul Link』 skill

There was no question about accepting the quest.

It signaled the start of a forced quest that was triggered under certain conditions. Leeha had no right to refuse.

“This is…

『The contract is already starting to falter. Bring the ‘Fire Flower’. If you bring it to me, I will help increase Komdori’s capacity. Then, that damn kid- no, ignis won’t be able to pop out and separate from his contractor.』

Ifrit jerked her chin towards Ignis, who was standing at a slant next to Koma.

It was then that Leeha realized something had been off.

‘Remembering… I’ve seen Koma turn into a fire bear, but I’ve never seen a fire spirit jump out near Koma.’

Of course, the reason was soon evident.

The quest request and Ifrit’s words contained the answer. Currently, Koma could not handle the advanced fire spirit, ignis.

“So, are you saying I shouldn’t summon Koma to the present world until then?”

『Yes. Komdori appearing in the current world involves relying on the power of the fire spirit. But, if you summon her recklessly in a situation like this, her soul could simply disappear. Well, if you want to give up on the soul mate, you can.』

“Why would I? I understand, so where can I find the Fire Flower?”

『I’m not sure. I did tell the Lava Lizards to guard it, but I don’t know where they are… probably somewhere with lava.』

“If the king of fire spirits doesn’t know-”

『Do I have to know everything? As long as you know the Fire Flower exists in the present world, that’s it for me!』

Ifrit raised her voice, took another long drag of her cigarette.

Leeha could not argue with the king of fire spirits anymore. Besides, Middle Earth was not the place to get all the information from Ifrit.

“Okay. Fire Flower… I’ll find it.”

Upon Leeha’s bowed and agreeable reply, ifrit wore a satisfied look.

She flicked the cigarette upside down, tapped the tobacco dust off, then turned around.

『This land suits my taste quite a bit, so call me here when you find the flower. Ignis! Let’s go!』

“Eh, why? I just got out and enjoying myself alone. I want to stay out a bit more-”

『Quietly follow me, you brat.』

“Oh, oh no, my ears!”

To Leeha, they appeared simply as a small girl dragging a small boy by the ears.

Could they truly be fire spirits?

As if to answer Leeha’s unspoken question,

Whoosh-! Suddenly, a burst of flames flared up, and Ifrit, ignis, and Koma all disappeared without a trace.

(To be continued…)
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“… Blaugrunn-ssi?”

“I don’t know either. Lava lizard? Seems like it means a lava salamander, but…… I have never heard of such creature… moreover, all of the regions with lava are inhabited by red dragons!”

As Blaugrunn frowned, Leeha had to let out a big sigh. Just where did it all go wrong?

“… Bahamut…

“Yes? Do you need something, sir?”

“No, no….”

He couldn’t bring himself to tell Blaugrunn that everything seemed to have messed up because of that old man.

Leeha had to gather information on the Lava Zone and the creatures that probably inhabit there—the Lava lizard.

The deadline was merely 30 days in Middle Earth time, which is 6 days in reality.

* * *

Leeha: At that mountain range in the south of Minis, leading to the Kraven Sea?

Kijung: Yes. The only volcanic region on the Lope continent. Unless there’s something else on the Erika continent.

Leeha: Have you seen a Lava lizard there? Seems like a lava salamander.

Kijung: I’ve seen a Lava Golem. And…… I’ve seen what you are worrying about now.

Leeha: … Damn it. As expected. Thanks.

Once he finished his conversation with Kijung, he ended his information gathering operation.

Both Fernand and Blaugrunn confirmed there was no such thing as the Lava lizard. Let alone a place on the Lope continent where a volcano could erupt and lava could flow there was only one place.

‘If it’s not there, it’s not there… No, it might not have been there in the past, but it could have been updated by now ‘

The ecology of Middle Earth sometimes fluctuates. Monsters and items would be added or removed by updates.


The inference that Fernand and Kijung once found a volcanic region in the south of Minis before the new continent was discovered was somehow plausible.

“Are you really going? I’m not sure I can help then.”

“Huh? Why?”

“Please don’t ask knowingly”

“… Because you’re a Metal?”

“Yes. If I unknowingly step into the red dragon’s protective barrier… then they will immediately detect my presence. If that happens-”

“We both won’t be safe.”

“Yes. Maybe I might be safe. The real danger is you, sir.”

The Metal and Color factions are mutually hostile.

Still, if it’s Blaugrunn, who is still only at the juvenile-class, both sides usually don’t mess with ‘kids’ too much. They might hold him hostage for a ransom or start a fight, but usually, they won’t go as far as killing.

However, Leeha?

‘There’s no need to even mention me.’

It wasn’t long ago when his kinship with the Chromatic Dragon clan had plummeted beyond -150%. If he gets caught, he might not even have bones to collect.

“How about first looking from the Erika continent?”

“Since we’ve found a location with flowing lava, we have to check it out. If it’s not there, we’ll move on right away.”

“… Okay. I’ll teleport you then.”

Blaugrunn hesitated before finally nodding his head.

Even though he knew it was risky, it wasn’t completely out of the question. But since he was unable to assist, he couldn’t help but worry.

“Sigh…… I originally just wanted to upgrade and train in the new continent. But what’s this-”

Shwooo……!


While Leeha was grumbling about the unexpected situation, his body disappeared.

In a moment, he appeared near a town in the far south of Minis. The surrounding altitude was fairly high, yet a bit further and one would quickly find the sea.

‘It feels strange. Like Mexico?’

A country he has never been to, but often seen in movies. It was a place oozing with the ambiance of Central and South America where striking sun, desert, abrupt mountains, and sea coexisted.

“There’s no need for supplies anyway. Just keep going.”

Leeha walked toward the towering mountain visible from a long distance. There was a village nearby, but there was no need to stop. He could neither summon Blaugrunn nor Koma. He had to bring the ‘Fire Flower’ back with Jellypong’s and his strength alone.

It was a penalty that drastically limited his abilities, but Leeha couldn’t help feeling his heart race.

‘Difficulty in games is a must after all. It’s been too easy lately.’

While arguing was not a thought for one who had been facing opponents like Toon and P. Elizabeth up to a few days ago, an adventure to an unknown place was enough to excite Leeha.

Step by step, Leeha kept walking towards the high volcano reaching up to the clouds.

“I’m recruiting a group for Lava Golem hunting. I promise you won’t go further than a 20-minute distance from the entrance.”

“Anyone who can take on the level 2 Juvenile red dragon Raid? I’ll play a level 170 dealer.”

“I’m selling Flame Resistance Scrolls! Essentials, essentials!”

When a pungent smell started to make its way to Leeha’s nose, he also started to hear the users’ shouts.

The smell of sulfur signified the entrance to the volcanic zone, the users were gathering at this spot to prepare.

‘It’s a hunting ground for about level 170. There shouldn’t be any real danger. The red dragons are mostly juvenile with occasional adults. The monsters of the new continent generally exceed level 200. For Leeha, who had once cleared a demon base with Blaugrunn, this level hunting ground is not scary.’

Leaving the users’ noise behind, Leeha immediately entered the volcano.

By using the concept of a dungeon from the foothills, party members can create an instance dungeon for them to enter if they wish. However, Leeha decided to keep it as an open hunting ground.

This was because he had to seek the ‘Fire Flower’ with draw less aggression to speed up the exploration, not to level up.

‘Surprisingly, it isn’t hot?’


Although there was a slightly warm feeling, it wasn’t as hot as one would expect inside a volcano. The path was quite narrow, with occasional spaces where lava flowed like groundwater, illuminating the space.

This seemed like a very convenient place for tanks, and dealers just had to secure their positions without worrying about aggro.

Leeha inserted a magazine into Black Bass. Always on guard -no matter the lower level hunting ground- passing by users despite hunting here and there, Leeha continued his journey.

“Roarrrrr-!”

“Attribute Enhancement: Ice.”

“Metal Breaker!”

The shouts of the Lava Golems, born from consolidated lava, and the skill casting of the users hunting the Golems pleasantly echoed in Leeha’s ears, like watching a school talent show.

‘It felt exactly like this when I used to hunt Stone Golems.’

Compared to Stone Golems, which were mainly warriors, lava Golems had a fire attribute, making it essential for mages to participate in the party.

“Great job-! I got it-”

“Roarrrrr-!”

Crackkk……..

A layer of black, hardened lava skin peeled off.

The warrior who used the heavy-hitting skill that could even shatter steel, looked bewildered.

“Huh? What’s this-”

“Hey man, that was terrible luck. It’s a class switch! When it turns into a ‘Flowing Lava Golem’, it’s tough, so let’s just TT-out! Dealers, retreat!”

One of the dealers, accustomed to hunting, frowned as they informed their party members. The dealer and healers withdrew with a bitter look on their faces.

“It looks strange. A class change is also happening.”

However, the tank and melee warrior, who had just arrived, was momentarily fascinated by the Golem’s appearance.

Stripping away the hardened shell to reveal a round, magma body. It wasn’t entirely solid nor was it entirely liquid. Just the glimpse of its jewel-like luminosity was able to captivate his attention for about 3 seconds.

“Kuguaaaaaa-!”

“Ah, the aggro has pulled?”

“Ah, tanker-nim, run! Run! Run until the aggro is released!” And 3 seconds was more than enough time for aggro to happen. If he couldn’t distance himself while changing classes, it was natural to pay the price!

Two mages, a long-ranged dealer, one healer, and a tank-cum-melee dealer that made up the group of five hurriedly fled.

The warrior who was retreating frantically yelled.

“Hey, should we not attack it?”

“You can’t hurt the flowing Lava Golem with regular attacks! The monsters rank is so high for us to handle-”

“Tuquaaaaaaaaaay———-”

“Uhgem, seems to be a tough one.”

“Huh?”

And all this was observed by Leeha. The flowing Lava Golem crumbled down, turning into ashes. To Leeha, dealing with a monster from an approximately 200m distance with just one shot was a task as easy as a ‘blink of an eye’.

“Uh, it looked dangerous, so I’ve taken care of it. Is that okay?”

Leeha raised his voice. The echoes of the gunshot kept resonating inside the volcano dungeon.

Baaaaang!!!!

The echoes not only attracted attention from the users whom Leeha had just saved but were also loud enough to attract nearby users.

“….. That gunshot-”

“I’ve seen him before! I think I know him!”

“Is it Leeha? Is that Leeha?”

“Damn!”

There were not only Minis users even if it was the southernmost hunting ground of Minis. With just a single shot, the users who were about to reach level 200 could identify Leeha! Furthermore, since the rumors about the base of the demons had been completely dispersed, their gazes towards Leeha were close to fondness.

“Ahem, hello everyone, good morning.”

Leeha gave a hearty welcome to the crowd, making his voice sound deeper. Even with this cheesy concept, the players cheered him on as if they had met some pop star.

‘What is this, am I this famous?’

Seeing the crowd’s reaction, Leeha could not help but feel his shoulders rising with pride. He hadn’t expected that the loud gunshot in the volcano would call such a reaction.

* * *

“Wow, it’s really Leeha.”

“The greatest musketeer in Middle Earth! Leeha!”

“That guy is Lee Jiwon-”

“Shh! That’s just a rumor. If you say it wrong, we’ll get in trouble.”

Users who were hunting nearby swarmed towards Leeha.

Among them, there were users who could not completely discard their suspicions about the rumors, but they were in the extreme minority and none of them dared to openly admit it in front of Leeha.

“Leeha-nim! Leeha-nim! Can we please take a screenshot with you?”

“Me too! Me too!”

“Could you take a group photo with our guild members?”

This place was the main hunting ground for users around level 170, inhabited by dragons ranging from Adult to the Red class. The members of the raiding party who came for dragon raids were, at most, around level 200.

Unlike during the time of the New Continent Expedition, no one here could underestimate Leeha.

“Ahem, I’m not photogenic….”

“No, no, no〜! Please take a picture with our guild! Okay?”

Leeha continued to politely decline, but the users did not give up.

They could not give up.

While rejecting, his smile was so inviting that it clearly signaled ‘Please continue to flatter and praise me.’

‘Whew… So this is the life of a celebrity… Oh my, oh my.’

Leeha chuckled with a radiant smile, and the users that perceived the smile as a sign of consent, swarmed around him even more.

The hot lava underground area beneath the cliff, which would normally be filled with groundwater, was heating up even more with Leeha’s popularity.

(To be continued…)
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“Don’t push!”

“I’m… I’m falling!” 『Fly』!” 『Levitation』!”

Even though the path where the users walked was narrow and there was risk of casualties if a crowd surged in, they didn’t heed such dangers.

They used airborne skills and somehow managed to approach Leeha, almost as if it was their primary objective. Desperate efforts to capture a screenshot or exchange an extra word! That was expected since if they were lucky enough to be added on Leeha’s friend list, who knew how vast the network could expand? They were all well aware of that.

Probably more than half of his popularity was due to that.

Of course, Leeha was also well aware of these aspects.

‘Should I thank Chiyou for this? She exposed my skill sets and turned me into a flashing beacon…’

She had made him the center of attention.

In that spotlight, Leeha now handled the rumor himself.

He had his skills and his connections vetted.

In Middle Earth, apart from information, prestige was quite a valuable property. Prestigious users were surrounded by skilled users, and this cycle, where they could gain further information and assets, continued.

Chiyou, who had spread the rumors, had put him on this loop, which was a reason for him to smile.

“Stop, stop, I get it! Stop pushing each other just to get closer!”

Leeha yelled at the users surrounding him, and at the ones still trying to move closer.

Leeha had attracted the attention of almost all the users in the volcanic area.

His popularity wasn’t just for capturing screenshots. He felt good, and still had things to do, didn’t he?

“I will allow screenshots for those who want them.”

“Wooooah! Leeha!”

“However!”


With Leeha holding his hand up and speaking in a loud voice, the crowd went quiet instantly. Once again, he was reminded of the life of a top-grade celebrity.

Suppressing his laughter, Leeha opened his mouth again.

He proposed a condition for the exchange.

“Only those who have information about the 『Fire Flower』 or 『Lava lizard』 can take the screenshot.”

He announced this calmly and firmly. Caught up in Leeha’s momentum, no one even thought to take a screenshot.

‘In reality, I’m not using a screenshot prevention scroll, so it should work if they just took one.’

There was no way to prevent others from taking it regardless.

So people started to focus on what Leeha was saying.

“What’s a 『Fire Flower』?”

“A lava lizard? Other than the Magma Golem, is there any other monster?”

“I’ve never seen any reptilian monsters.”

The users began talking amongst themselves upon hearing Leeha’s conditions. Although the location could range from the entrance to midway through the volcanic region, the ecosystem didn’t vary much.

Thus, if these users didn’t know…

They could significantly limit the search range.

‘It looks like it’s not near the general hunting grounds. I guess I have to go near the magma.’

Leeha peeked down at the bubbling magma flow while watching the confused users. There was hardly any space for the users to stand near the magma.

There was no special monster appearing there, nor were there any items, so there was no reason for the users to go down that far.

Unless, of course, they fell accidentally.

“…… Speaking of which*…”

Leeha fiddled with his toes.


So far, his application to increase the harmonization rate in Middle Earth seemed to be left unnoticed.

That meant that he didn’t have to feel the full intensity of the heat.

Leeha swallowed dryly.

“Uh, should I endure this and just go down?

If I buy a fire resistance potion, gulp it down, and hold out with a health recovery potion–”

Before the 100% harmonization rate applied, he would be able to withstand the current conditions.

There were no paths going down, but that wasn’t a big problem to Leeha.

“As long as I secure a rope position, a repellent would surely be enough to descend.”

The approximate distance to where the lava flowed was about 30 meters.

With this height, he could certainly go down.

“Quickly descend about 10 meters using a repeller, use the Eagle’s Eye skill to look around. If you maintain three-point contact just like climbing a cliff, you can move as much as you want.”

Since the users were consistently unknowledgeable, Leeha formulated an exploration plan himself. If he could go to the village one more time, he could go around looking for the Fire Flower right now.

“So, if you guys don’t know… unfortunately, I may have to postpone the screenshot till next time.”

“No, no, don’t do that〜!”

“Please just take a picture once, Leeha-ssi! Please, it’s a wish! Leeha! Leeha!”

The users were buzzing with the expectation that once pressed a bit further, with Leeha’s light rejection waving off their requests, he might give in.

“Ah, this can’t be done… hahaha-”

That was not the sound of Leeha’s laugh. Cutting off Leeha’s laughter, a vibration sound came from the inside of the volcanic region.

“…… What is that?”

“What is that sound?”


The previously bustling users suddenly became tensed, and so did Leeha.

The yells sounded like wind falling, or in some way, an impossibly large laugh. What is the identity of this sound?

“Did a field boss appear? Anyone know what field boss pops up in a volcanic area?!”

“No field boss appears in a volcanic region!”

“Are you sure there’s no field boss?”

“Yes. Because-”

———-yen yen o O O———

———-yen yen haha…………..

The sound resounded again.

This time the interval was comparatively shorter.

A sound coming from the back of the winding cave-shaped volcanic region. Leeha could hear it.

Among the unidentified sounds, very small screams were mixed in.

‘Screams?! Are users fleeing? Then besides field boss-‘

For a moment, goosebumps popped up on Leeha’s back. It should be a monster that surprised the users, at least a field boss. Yet, there were no field bosses in the volcanic region.

Why wasn’t there?

‘Pi, it’s not a field boss! It’s not a field boss but-‘

There existed something stronger than a field boss.

Just at that moment, a large shadow swung around the corner visible from where Leeha and the users were gathered.

The massive wings flapping. The reason why no other field bosses could exist in the volcanic region.

“Wh, wh- What?! That, that thing over there-”

“It’s the Red- The Red, it’s the Red!”

“It’s a red dragon———!”

“Let’s scraaaamble!”

When the red dragon appeared, Leeha was surprised and whispered to Blaugrunn.

Roaaaar-!

However, the red dragon’s spatial lock was faster.

『Hearing the gunshots, I suspected it, but it turned out to be true. Daring to show yourself right in front of my house,』

The inside of the volcanic cave region was never wide-reaching.

Despite that, the red dragon was agilely flying towards them. After all, this place was right in front of the red dragon Lair.

『So you are ‘the’ Ha Leeha.』

The red dragon recognized Leeha. The amity between Leeha and the Colored Dragon tribe stood at -150%. His infamy had thoroughly spread around, and that was a matter of course.

The yellow eyes of the red dragon accurately stared at Leeha.

* * *

“Blaugrunn-ssi, the space is closed. What do we do?”

“Wait… try waiting. If I use my summoning and Leeha-ssi’s appearance technique at the same time, the mana linkage should become stronger, so if we time it right, probably-”

『I know that you have a Bronze Dragon attached to you. I have attached tracking mana to you. On the day you escape to Rare with the Bronze dragon, we will send all our people there.』

Leeha, who was about to use his appearance skill, stopped and quickly whispered again.

“St… stop! Stop! Blaugrunn-ssi! Let’s halt for now!”

“Huh? What about Leeha-ssi?”

“Just wait for now. They said they attached tracking mana.”

“Ah. Then it won’t work. Absolutely not. Don’t use appearance.”

Blaugrunn’s anxious voice quickly calmed down.

He fully anticipated what the red dragons were planning with the tracking mana because he understood the implications.

“There… hey! Do you want to give up so easily?”

“Who said I’m giving up? I just meant wait, as I will figure out another way.”

Of course, Blaugrunn didn’t abandon Leeha. Leeha briefly paused his whispering and surveyed the red dragon and the surrounding situation.

The users who swarmed around Leeha like an ant crowd had already fled to a considerable distance.

The attack team for the red dragon Raid was still gathered near the entrance.

‘That’s right. There must have been almost fully prepared raid teams at the entrance. About 50 people… if these recent escapees can bring them all, it might be possible.’

The number of people who ran away just now is well over 50.

It might not tally perfectly due to randomness, but a raid team of at least 100 people could be formed.

While they start the battle, if Leeha maintains a distance and snipes the red dragon, killing it, they might have a chance to win.

What is needed now? Time.

“Uh- Hello, red dragon? There is lava in front of your house, and there’s a volcano at the back. Isn’t this just like a river behind the mount situation? I sincerely congratulate you on having such grandeur-”

“Shut up.”

“Eek.”

The red dragon’s yellow eyes burned fiercely.

However, the red dragon neither cast a magic spell on Leeha nor showed off its breath immediately.

That strange delay reassured Leeha.

‘It may not be aiming to kill me. As a chromatic dragon, it wouldn’t just hate me, right? No, it might be impressed by my reputation. After all, I have this buff.’

『Ancient Dragon Slayer’s Aura』

Description: Your aura from slaying an Ancient-grade dragon can be felt by all dragons, regardless of their metal or color.

Even the brave Adult dragons, the curious Juvenile dragons, and the ignorant Hatchling dragons will be suppressed by your aura if you take a hostile stance.

You are a slayer of the Ancient Dragon.

Effect: Adult dragon’s total ability is reduced by -40%. A Juvenile Dragon’s total ability is reduced -50%. Hatchling Dragon’s total ability is reduced -60%.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’shi is slightly different.

The main characteristic is its four wide-spread wings.

But the red dragon in front of him is smaller than Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’shi and has only two wings.

‘It must be an Adult-class.’

In that case, the Aura of the Dragon Slayer buff should apply. If the total ability is reduced by 40%…not to mention, if I can properly utilize the mana evaporation bomb which was applied to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’shi as well…

I can kill it.

‘Quickly. But carefully. What’s needed is patience’.

Leeha makes eye contact with the red dragon and gives a small smile. His slowly moving right arm ensures that he wouldn’t be noticed.

The red dragon’s yellow pupils were still staring down Leeha. It was almost as if it was trying to kill him with only a glance. Its pupils only moved moments later.

“I’m taking you.”

“Huh? What-”

Leeha, who thought that his action was detected, was startled but the red dragon made no reaction. The huge hand of the dragon grasped Leeha.

Woosh-!

They disappeared from view.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Leeha has been kidnapped.
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“Over there! There’s a red dragon!”

“If Leeha isn’t out yet, he might be fighting!”

“Understood. It was hastily formed, but it’s sufficient! We can get it! Healers, do a good job with the buffs! Dealers, don’t just attack recklessly, calculate the tank aggro well!”

The tank, clad in clanging plate mail, had been leading the users for well over 15 minutes.

“…It’s not there?”

“Where is the red dragon?”

“Huh? What? Where did it go?”

They couldn’t see anything. There wasn’t even a single Lava Golem in the vicinity, let alone a red dragon.

“There’s no corpse of Leeha either?”

“Wow, amazing. So are they possibly in a one-on-one fight?”

Someone tossed out those words carelessly. But it made the level 170 users wonder. A mixture of incredulity and genuine curiosity was evident in their thoughts.

“Further in! Let’s go further in!”

“Leehaaaa! Please include us tooooo!”

The users’ anticipation was strong enough to suppress their fear.

Just a while ago, these same users who were tormented by fear, now with a picnic-like atmosphere, roamed around the volcanic area in search of Leeha.

“That’s!”

Suddenly, Leeha felt as if space was shifting. His surroundings were already different. But what was surprising was not the changed scenery or the forced spatial movement.

『I brought him.』

『… Really, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s Slayer. To think I’d sense the aura of a dragon slayer from such an insignificant creature.』


『Why did you bring him here? It would be much easier if I take him and seal him in a poison pit for 200 years!』

『You fool. Are you ignoring the elder’s opinion.』

『Who said that? Anyway, if we’re going to kill him as painfully as possible, leave it to me.』

To Leeha, it seemed like a giant stadium.

Though there was a hole in the ceiling, there was no sense of openness. Hundreds of chromatic dragons surrounded the ‘stage’ in the middle of the vast stadium, and on the stage stood Leeha.

‘There are so many! At least there are adult ones – no, some of them are even the Ancient level.’

The number of huge chromatic dragons was over thirty at a rough guess.

Despite being able to see the sky, the feeling of being overwhelmed didn’t fade.

『Leeha.』

Leeha felt a shock throughout his body. Someone had called his name.

Even though it was much quieter than the roars of the dragons around him, the energy contained within that voice was astonishing.

Leeha turned his head towards the dragon that had called him.

A long white beard stretched down to its chest, contrasting the rest of its pitch-black body.

『You killed Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.』

The being held an aura that could overpower others just by existing.

This was a first for Leeha who had encountered quite a few dragons. No, strictly speaking, it was the first time since Bahamut.

‘It’s incredible.’

An aura surpassing that of Bailephus and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.

Leeha had an inkling that this black dragon was the ‘elder’ that the chromatic dragons had been muttering about.

In the current situation, where he couldn’t teleport, or fight, or even log out, the only way to survive was to negotiate with this black dragon. Leeha realized this immediately.


“… Yes, I did.”

『How was his end? How did he die?』

“Excuse me?”

『Did he give up on everything and accept death? Did he say he died for honor?』Leeha tried to look into the eyes of the black dragon, but he couldn’t properly find them. This was because, apart from the white beard, even his eyes were nothing but a deep black. Contrary to the red dragon who held a black pupil within a yellow one, the black dragon was utterly immersed in black.

‘How did he die…’

Leeha remembered the last moments of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. He had perfectly collided the Dragon Heart Bullet from his Blaugrunn with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s Dragon Heart, and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had succumbed to its death. But something occurred during this event.

“….he did not give up or die for honor. Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh he fought, struggling until the very end with me- and with Bailephus.”

“Hmm…”

the corners of the black dragon’s mouth moved ever so slightly. It was a strange thing for Leeha. What was that smug expression for?

“What was your reason for taking his corpse?”

“Excuse me?”

“I asked, why did you take Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s corpse?”

“I didn’t take it. Or looking at it from another perspective, I can’t even say I killed him.”

“What nonsense are you spouting? You’re not the one who killed him? I can clearly sense the energy of a Dragon Slayer coming from you.”

The black dragon’s question resonated quietly and deeply.

A barrage of words from the chromatic dragons, all discussing innovative ways to kill Leeha, abruptly stopped.

“Yes, that’s true. But just before he was completely extinguished…. Bluebeard ‘Le’ appeared and took his neck and corpse. I did manage to incapacitate Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, but I could not confirm if he had completely died.”

This was the truth. It was known that a dragon would die if their Dragon Heart collided. He did collide it indeed, and Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was dying, but he was unable to confirm ‘death’!

Leeha calmly narrated only the facts. Therefore, the agitation among the chromatic dragons deepened.

“Le?! Why would Le…?”


“Why would Bluebeard plot something?”

“I’ve heard rumors that respecting elder Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, le had contact-”

“To think that he would actually… Her majesty-”

“Silence.”

The rebuke from the black dragon halted the commotion among the chromatic dragons. Their mouths remained shut due to his overwhelming power.

“Wait, did they not know? Aren’t they chromatic dragons just like him?”

Leeha found this scene strange. Shouldn’t they know better? It’s about their own kin, they couldn’t possibly know less than him.

“No, they could. Bahamut definitely said that he had cut ties with the chromatic dragon tribes… So that wasn’t a show, it was true?”

This was why the chromatic dragons had not taken any action against the formal complaint.

Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had now become a dragon without any relation to their tribe.

Leeha concentrated to remember the suddenly changed atmosphere.

“….. Le…. I see. Hehe, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh struggled until the very end.”

“Hm?”

Leeha raised an eyebrow. What could the meaning of the laughter from the black dragon be? At that moment, Leeha recalled what he’d heard about dragons.

They were not the metal dragons pursuing righteousness and justice. They were the chromatic dragons who valued chaos and individualism from the beginning. Therefore, stating that Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh had accepted his defeat honorably and embraced his death would actually hurt them. Because, for them, struggling even a little more at the brink of death and showing even a little more selfishness were considered honorable.

“No, never mind. I’ve now found out what I was curious about. Kill him.”

So, this kind of reaction was expected. For the chromatic dragons who didn’t care whether Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh lived or died, there was only one reason to bring Leeha here. They merely wanted to know how Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh died. And once they knew the reason?

There was no need for the Chromatic Dragons to respect Leeha.

“Huh? Wait! Wait a minute!”

At black dragon’s words, the dragons began to prepare(?). Despite Leeha’s ridiculous outcry,

No dragon was focused on him.

“I’ve answered your questions, shouldn’t I be rewarded or something! Damn it, you guys hear what you want and then try to kill me?! How discourteous of your dark hides!”

『….. Hmm?』

For the first time, Leeha saw where the black dragon’s eyes and eyebrows were. His face was heavily distorted, filled with countless emotions.

But even for Leeha, it was a forgone conclusion.

“You stupid lizards, always causing trouble and paying back kindness with enmity, always being raided by humans! Hey, there! Red dragon, who brought me here! You were on the brink of death! Did you know that? There were more than a hundred humans fighting in front of you! If you hadn’t escaped over here under the guise of fetching me, you’d be dead for sure!”

『….. Wow, such a spectacle.』

It was a sight the dragons could not quite grasp.

Was there another such discourteous creature screaming atop the ‘altar’ encircled by at least thirty or more adult class dragons?

At least in the parameters of the medieval setting they understood, such a creature didn’t exist.

Leeha slowly turned in place, examining all the dragons.

His eyes caught something among the dragons who, despite pausing briefly, were still emitting an intimidating aura.

“You, you- you!”

It was like a lifeline thrown in darkness. He wasn’t sure. But there was no turning back now either.

In this moment where he couldn’t flee using Blaugrunn, this was Leeha’s only chance to grasp!

“Hey, you over there! The tiny white dragon! And you, green dragon runt! You two, remember me?”

Two dragons, showing a distinct size difference even among adult and ancient class, a juvenile class White and a juvenile class Green. At Leeha’s pointing, they flinched.

The dragons’ gazes followed Leeha’s finger.

『Huh?』

『Who… who is he talking about?』 For some impatient dragons, colored spheres were beginning to gather.

Leeha was intending on using his magic immediately, thus he spoke even faster.

“Th-that, your names- surely… Sho, shoblanc! Yes, shoblanc! You’re it! And the green one over there, is it Greenvogel? Greenfogel? Right?”

In a life or death situation, everyone displays superhuman strength.

Leeha recalled the names of two juvenile class dragons he’d never heard before.

『Shoblanc.』

『Greenvogel. Do you know Leeha?』

The adult-ancient class dragons next to the two juveniles questioned them. However, shoblanc and Greenvogel both shook their heads cluelessly.

『No, not really.』

『I’ve heard the name- from Ajussi Kuzi. He did something terrible-』

“You, the youngsters! Don’t you remember, I once saved both your lives? You were trying to sneak Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s lair and got caught by me. Back then, I could have easily killed you, but I let you go! Are you repaying kindness with revenge again?”

Their conversation was audible to Leeha as well. If he misses this moment, the opportunity will never return.

With all his might, Leeha tried to engrave himself onto the Chromatic Dragons. Every single word from Leeha began to permeate the stadium, the expressions of the dragons became more severe.

Why were they curious about Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s death? The Chromatic Dragons seeking evil and chaos don’t need a weak specimen.

And yet a human managed to do that to two juvenile class dragons?

The adult class Chromatic Dragons were all wearing such expressions.

『What kind of absurdity is he saying!』

『Right! Dad! Are you going to believe such a human’s words? I’ll just kill him-』

『Shoblanc. Greenvogel. Is this true?』

Just as the green dragon was about to exhale a breath after inhaling, the black dragon opened his mouth.

(To be continued…)
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『Did you really beg for your life to Ha Leeha?』

『O-O-Onyx Elder! Just a moment! We need to hear what these children have to say.』

『Get out, forele. I can’t consider you their protector. Shoblanc, Greenvogel, come forward immediately.』

The saintly green dragon who had been blocking the path of the green dragon, stepped forward. But there was no chance he’d be eaten by the black dragon.

‘Onyx.’

Leeha: Blaugrunn, do you know about Onyx among the chromatic dragons?

Blaugrunn: Eek! What’s happening that the name Onyx came up? Ah! Ah, that red dragon is probably ‘lava Turtle’ who’s almost at the very top of the adult class. Being close to being an Ancient…

Leeha: No, forget about them. Tell me about Onyx. What kind of guy is he?

Blaugrunn: He’s a black dragon. Among the chromatic dragons, he’s said to have lived the longest. If we only consider age, he’s even older than Bailephus. He was the last dragon to face the Lord before the Lord became a Platinum Dragon.

‘Good heavens……’

That means he’s almost the same age as Bahamut.

And it stands to reason that such an imposing presence comes from the black dragon referred to as Onyx.

Leeha: Any weaknesses that we could exploit?

Blaugrunn: Weaknesses of Onyx? Even the Lord wouldn’t know. Their final showdown was almost a tie.

Leeha: A tie?! With Bahamut?

Blaugrunn: Yes. He fought a tie with the Lord, who is the strongest metal dragon. Even among the chromatic dragons, he fought the parent like strongest red dragon of their time, and he won there too. He has been walking the path of absolute invincibility since then.

Bahamut is an equal match, and stronger than Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s?! As far as I know, there’s only one creature of that caliber.

The black dragon Onyx, who is in sight, means he’s almost as strong as Bluebeard Le.

Blaugrunn: There’s a slight rivalry with the red dragon because of something that happened in the past… But since they’re all chromatic dragons, there won’t be a problem.


Leeha: Damn…… we’re in trouble.

Blaugrunn: … What? Trouble? Leeha-nim, are you-

Leeha: -sigh, I’ll reach out if I survive.

Blaugrunn: O, onyx, and, were you caught by Onyx?! Haha, sir! Haha, sir!

Blaugrunn kept groaning but it didn’t reach her ears by now.

‘Looking at that dragon, it’s almost like he’s the strongest. How do I get out of here…?’

White dragon Shoblanc and green dragon Greenvogel were sluggishly approaching.

『Tell me. What happened.』

Onyx growled softly.

Feeling goosebumps from a quiet voice, the two Juvenile-class dragons started to defend their lives.

『… So Ha Leeha saved them in the end.』

『No, no, elder! This guy didn’t accept our fight!』

『That’s right! To insult, to insult our chromatic dragon clan! This bad human purposely released us!』

Shoblanc and Greenvogel did their best to defend themselves, but to no avail. Above all, lying in front of Onyx, the elder of the chromatic dragon clan, was an absolute taboo.

No matter how roundabout the explanation was, the conclusion was the same.

Onyx, looking at Shoblanc and Greenvogel, raised his head. There, he saw trembling White and green dragon clans.

The parents of two Juvenile-class dragons couldn’t meet Onyx’s eyes.

“Just look at that. Correct? Even though chromatic dragon clans are rude, right! Didn’t I save these two? Then at least, huh? You should give me a chance too!”

Even in the middle of all this, he intervened in dragon affairs while hopping around.

In reality, his excitement and anger had long subsided.


But he thought they wouldn’t listen to him if he faced them calmly, so he had to forcefully raise his tension and open his mouth.

“Since I saved White and Green, the chromatic dragon clan has to save me twice too, that’s fairness-”

『Then, haha, you should kill them.』

“-That’s not it… huh?”

『Ha Leeha, you are ordered to kill Shoblanc and Greenvogel. And you two are to resist and fight with all our might, with the pride of the chromatic dragon clan. Remember once again that what’s important to us isn’t the hypocritical bravado of accepting death. Now resist.』

The elder of the chromatic dragons was raising expectations beyond expectation.

For them, who are a strange community of evil and chaos, could concepts such as ‘repayment’ or ‘grace’ even be established in the first place?

‘Are they insane…… they’re telling us to fight?’

Leeha lowered his gaze from Onyx.

The two dragons standing a bit ahead of him, white and Green – they were juvenile class dragons. Was he to fight them here?

‘I’m not a mage nor a warrior.’ If it wasn’t for sniping or long-range attacks, he wouldn’t be able to participate in this kind of battle!

No matter how much he had the buff of the Dragon Slayer’s aura, the formation of the battle didn’t suit him.

“Wait. Wait a minute. Now, here… Are you telling me to fight those two dragons?”

『Yes.』

Onyx nodded as if it was natural.

Leeha could sense a peculiar nuance in the black dragon’s way of speaking. The current battle order was not to save Shoblanc and Greenvogel.

『Elder! Shoblanc- and Greenvogel are still children!』

『Yes, please. Mercy. They did not want to fight, but to flee!』

『Quiet… I am telling you to prove that. Fight.』

Not only Onyx but the dragons believed to be the parents of Shoblanc and Greenvogel were pleading. The fact that they were pleading itself felt strange to Leeha.


‘On the contrary, this is.

Leeha himself was anticipating the disadvantage of the combat, but were Onyx and the other dragons presuming his victory?

In other words, they are having Leeha kill Shoblanc and Greenvogel to destroy the concept of repayment of favor, and after that…

‘They plan to kill me as well.’

What did I do wrong?!

Do they perceive me as a dangerous individual? Has the black dragon, which is close to Bahamut, recognized my strength?

Although it was a flattering guess, isn’t it more precisely a bad situation if my life could disappear at any moment?

“That’s nonsense! There’s something wrong! Why do I have to fight with these children in the first place? I just came to use ‘Fire Flower’ and ‘lava lizard’, that’s it! Where did the red dragon who brought me here go? You said it! I haven’t invaded your territory yet!”

Although it paused for a moment, Leeha raised his voice again.

He couldn’t back down. If he followed Onyx’s intentions, he might be logged out for real.

One should always resist until the end.

The situation can always change.

『”…’Fire Flower’?”』

Onyx’s steely face lit up at that.

* * *

『”Lavartel.”』

『”Yes, elder.”』

『”Does the ‘Fire Flower’ remain?”』

『”No, it does not. We don’t have anything like that near our lair. And we’ve never seen ‘lava lizard’.”』The red dragon, who had brought Leeha, hastily lowered his head. Onyx hummed and turned his head slightly, but that was it.

『That’s likely. The “Fire Flower”. It’s been almost five hundred years since I last saw it. There’s no way it can be found now. I’ve never felt its energy in this land.』

Onyx said so, glaring at Leeha.

You dare mock me with such foolish words? That expression was now recognisable to Leeha as well.

However, it was Leeha who was surprisingly flustered at Onyx’s reaction.

‘How many years?’

Five hundred years?

Leeha seriously considered using the “Key of the Spirit Realm” to meet Ifrit.

Why on earth does he want me to find an item I haven’t felt since five hundred years ago?

‘Are you crazy? World Tree was talking about eight hundred years, and now it’s five hundred years?’

Seeing Leeha’s reaction, onyx snorted a chuckle for the first time. But it was not a laugh of joy. He simply laughed in disbelief at Leeha’s expression. 『What a foolish human. To think that the Fire Flower still remains in this land… Useless prattling-』 “No, no! It’s true! I heard it from the Fire Spirit King, ifrit! He told me to fetch the Fire Flower! Even being a Fire Spirit King he wouldn’t have asked me to find something that doesn’t exist!”

『Ifrit? Ifrit said that?』 Onyx’s face showed surprise once again.

『He wouldn’t lie…』

Shoblanc and Greenvogel, facing Leeha, were in a dilemma of whether to attack or not, and were just observing Onyx’s reaction. Like a candle in the wind, Leeha was wholly utilising the system of the Middle Earth.

‘Ah, damn! This feels like walking a tightrope for my life.’

It wasn’t much of a loss even if he died now.

Because Onyx’s words had provided a ‘hint’. What does the absurd setting of five hundred years mean?

Thanks to becoming accustomed to the nonsense requests of quests requiring unobtainable items, he sensed something.

‘Bahamut knew that there was no World Tree in the old continent. Mana measurement can reveal many things.’

That is, ifrit mentioned he could sense the Fire Flower even though Onyx had not seen it in five hundred years. There’s only one place where it could be.

‘The new continent.’

They just came first because it was the only place in the old continent that had flowing lava.

It was threatening to risk his life, but still, Leeha had discovered an essential hint.

『Okay, you will go fetch the “Fire Flower”.』

“Yes, indeed.”

It should have been a moment to cheer ‘Yes!’, but there was no need to rush under the subtly shifting atmosphere. Onyx’s black eyes reflected light and sparkled.

『I will tell you how you can survive.』

‘God forbid…’

Leeha swallowed his saliva. As expected, a hologram window appeared in front of his eyes after a while.

“That, so what you’re saying is… You didn’t accept the deal with Onyx, did you?”

“If I hadn’t accepted the deal, would I be here now?”

“Lord, lord! Making a deal with Onyx, it’s better to make a deal with a devil!”

Blaugrunn, who was pulling his hair and roaring while hearing Leeha’s story, was sighing at Blue’s lair as Leeha distanced himself from the square of the coloured dragons.

“Haah… Well, it’s a lie to say I had no choice, but there was something I achieved.”

Although Blaugrunn was saddened, Leeha was not a fool.

Since he had heard about Onyx’s true nature from Blaugrunn, he was able to make a deal to a certain extent.

Of course, not wanting to die was the first reason why he accepted the quest.

“Obtained! There’s nothing to be gained by making a deal with the coloured ones! If our Lord finds out-”

“I think Bahamut would like that.”

“He shouldn’t! Our lord- I mean, lord! Our Lord won’t be pleased! Our Lord likes Leeha the best among humans, but this news will make him turn his back on you!”

Despite Blaugrunn’s panicked shouting, which involved calling Bahamut as ‘mentor’ in his confusion, Leeha carefully examined the quest window.

(To be continued …)
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『Becoming the Ultimate Dragon』

Description: “Just put a mana tracker on it and send it to me. If you find the Fire Flower, bring it to me first. If you fail to deliver it… I will pursue you in the name of the chromatic dragons. And I will kill you.”

Onyx, the elder of the chromatic dragons and the black dragon, wants to consume the Fire Flower. A spell of his has already been placed on your bag. If you don’t deliver the Fire Flower to Onyx within 24 hours of it entering your bag, the chromatic dragons will hunt you down.

Let’s not imagine the outcome.

Contents: Deliver the Fire Flower to Onyx within 24 hours of obtaining it.

Reward: +50% intimacy with the chromatic dragons

+100% intimacy with the white dragon, shoblanc

+100% intimacy with the green dragon, Greenvogel

+100% intimacy with the black dragon, onyx

Condition for Failure: Failure to obtain the Fire Flower, missing the deadline after obtaining the Fire Flower Penalty upon Failure: Attack and pursuit by 30 adult-level chromatic dragons, including Onyx

‘Using even the bargaining skill, the only reward I can get is intimacy. These quests are becoming quite rogue.’

Initially, there was no reward at all.

They dared to offer sparing my life on the spot as a reward!

Only because Leeha had shown the best negotiating skills in the history of Middle Earth, using his bargaining skill, did he manage to obtain at least some intimacy as a reward.

Still, the quest became quite valuable when conditions changed.

The intimacy with the chromatic dragons is currently around -150%.

If this quest was successful?

‘Shoblanc and Greenvogel are just barely adult-level. Although these kids can be excused…’

The intimacy with the elder Onyx would be reset to 0%.


Though the other chromatic dragons would still be at -100%, if I can get to the ‘big head’, the elder’s good graces, won’t I be able to bear with the rest?

The structure of the chromatic dragons, as confirmed by Leeha, was not as absolute as that of the metal dragons.

‘The problem is what the Fire Flower is… I know there’s a hint on the new continent…

There was doubt from the title of the quest.

『Becoming the Ultimate Dragon』

As if Onyx would become the ultimate dragon once he gets the Fire Flower, doesn’t it sound like that?

“What are you going to do?!”

“What do you mean? Blaugrunn, have you ever heard of something like this?”

“Wh-what are you talking about?”

“Attack if attacked.”

“What?”

“Let’s go, to the new continent. We’re going to be busy for a while. The deadline given by Ifrit was only 30 days in the first place. Hurry! Teleport go go!”

Leeha got up from his seat and helped Blaugrunn to stand.

Fortunately, Blaugrunn had already explored a considerable part of the new continent.

Having narrowed down the areas with volcanoes and potential lava flows, Leeha immediately set out for the new continent with him.

‘But if the Fire Flower is only one item, what should we do? If it’s like the crazy World Tree fruit…

Should I give it to Koma to upgrade, as per Ifrit’s requisition? But, if I do that, I’ll be under total attack from Onyx and more 30 chromatic dragons.

Or should I deliver it to Onyx?

『Eye for an Eye』

Failure consequence: Termination of the contract with the spirit of fire


50% increased chance that the soulmate will not respond to the Soul Link skill.

Then Koma will no longer have the effect of the ‘fire bear’, and the skill success rate of the soul link will be reduced by 50%.

‘This Middle Earth is getting harder as the level increases. Isn’t it normal for the game to get easier?’

Swoosh~!

Even at the moment of teleporting to the new continent, Leeha’s mind was still in turmoil.

* * *

“Are you really okay being alone?”

“Of course! You’ve done enough bringing me this far.”

“But without me, in sudden situations…”

“Stop right there! It’s not polite to say such things to an adult.”

Leeha laughed as he ruffled Blaugrunn’s head.

Seeing Blaugrunn’s genuinely anxious expression, Leeha found himself filled with conflicting emotions.

He understood that despite them being ‘partners’, he hadn’t given Blaugrunn full trust. Simultaneously, he felt the warmth of Blaugrunn’s concern.

“Don’t worry. If it gets dangerous, I’ll run away. In the worst case scenario, I’ll contact you separately.”

“Okay. If Leeha-nim is confident then…

“Oh, come on! Don’t worry too much! Besides, shouldn’t Blaugrunn be somewhere else so I can make an appearance anytime? If it seems really dangerous, I’ll contact you right away. So stop worrying.”

At Leeha’s laugh, Blaugrunn nodded his head. Thinking about it, Leeha’s proposition was more rational.

“Understood. Then I…

“Yes, I’m counting on you.”

“Alright. Please don’t let me experience the dreadful event of losing a partner.”


Blaugrunn shivered for a moment before saying goodbye to Leeha and teleporting away.

“Huh, it’s scarier than just saying don’t die.”

Standing alone on the new continent, Leeha looked at the towering mountain in the distance.

Despite being quite far away, its prominent size boasted an immense majesty compared to the surrounding mountains.

‘A strong candidate for a volcano. South of the World Tree’s forest. A place I’ve never been before.’

Walking towards the mountain, Leeha pulled out a cartridge.

No one was around yet, but he couldn’t let his guard down.

Clang-!

He couldn’t even call Koma, and Blaugrunn wasn’t there to help.

He had to rely solely on himself.

『Monmon? Mongdongmon!』

“Ah, ah? I have Jellypong too? Sorry, I’m sorry.”

Perhaps it knew what he was thinking. A translucent arm stretched out from Leeha’s vest, pressing itself to show its existence.

‘The climate itself is different. It’s much hotter and humid than the plains where the Redwoods and Gorilla paleos were.’

It was like a tropical area. The excessively grown forest and the slightly sticky soil that was stepped on here and there felt like they had entered a jungle.

Roar… Roar…

Occasionally, the beasts’ cries could be heard.

Monkeys? Or tropical birds?

Each time these sounds only heard in zoos echoed, Leeha tensed up.

He knew what to be most careful of in such a jungle situation.

‘Camouflage.’

The Vietnam War was frequently cited in Leeha’s learned combat textbooks.

The tactics and strategies of the guerillas hiding in the jungle were so intensely studied and tested.

‘While I was in the military, Korea didn’t have any deployment into jungle terrains, so I wondered why we had to learn this, but surprisingly, it’s helping now…

Roar. Leeha quickly lowered his posture. That noise just now, something had moved the grass.

‘Someone is here.’

Quietly, very slowly, Leeha looked around, pulling back the bolt.

As soon as it completes loading, a metallic sound would echo, which would be hard to hear in the jungle.

Since his location could be exposed, he shouldn’t rush when loading a bolt action gun.

There was no need for a scope at such a close distance where foot sounds could be heard.

Leeha was looking for the source of the noise, only with his eyes.

‘Do they know about me too?’

It was definitely the sound of footsteps.

However, after one time, there was no sound at all. In this case, two possibilities can be suspected.

The first is that he misheard, the second is that it’s not a creature moving carelessly.

Leeha thought it was the latter.

Whatever it was, it clearly had its sights on Leeha, and it was clear that once Leeha hid his presence, it couldn’t move on the other side.”Intelligent movement. And this kind of terrain… probably a paleo creature who lives in the jungle.”

A pattern somewhat different from the monsters of one-way attacks.

He’s certain it’s a paleo. And if it’s a paleo? It’s an NPC he’d rather not encounter.

“All paleos of the new continent of Erika, with no existing affinity, will become hostile towards the player.”

‘The common quest’s failure penalty is shackling like this.’

Regretfully, he slowly started moving again. A step forward in a duck walk, then another step…

His steps quickened with each stride.

However, making noise three times was a good thing for him!

“Hands up, you will get shot if you move!”

He immediately pointed his gun towards the sound. The time it took to go from an awkward duck walk pose to a standing shooting position was less than a second.

“Huh?”

In that one second, he had to feel absurd.

“Haha, you’re still good at surprising people. What’s Ha Leeha-nim doing here?”

“.. That’s what I want to ask? What are you doing here, Biyemi?”

What appeared before his eyes was Lizardia user, Biyemi of the Byulcho.

“There’s a new continent, and a jungle. Isn’t it natural to have lizards?”

Biyemi revealed her teeth grinning.

Her words seemed persuasive, but isn’t this new continent too big to just pass by?

‘This far? No, I’ve heard that the users’ movements have become active after the common quest ended.’

Where is this? Blaugrunn’s terrain was a place in the new continent he hadn’t visited even once, a place he could come only because Blaugrunn found it.

And there was already a user who set foot there.

He took a careful look at Biyemi.

His item configuration had changed a bit, so he could tell she had grown to some extent, but what especially caught his eyes was her color.

Biyemi’s scales, which were almost dark green, had turned a little darker.

‘Black- Not quite… Purple? Violet? Would it become like this if mixed with green?’

Biyemi seemed to have noticed his observation and opened her mouth again, disrupting his focus.

“Just so you know, there are monkey and snake paleos here. Chuckle, you might like the monkey paleo, but be careful with the snake.”

“Oh, snake? There’s a snake paleo as well?”

“Yes. Very… very nice ones.”

Nice ones? He had just said to be careful. He tilted his head at Biyemi’s words.

She pointed in two directions, indicating where the monkey paleo’s tribe and the snake paleo’s tribe were located.

“I don’t know where you’re going, but if you find something good, share it. Hehe. Not just me, but also Guild Master.”

“Guild Master? I always take care of Guild Master.”

“Does a person who always look after him even have to be here? People from the Byulcho Guild cannot sleep because they heard that the first wave will hit Juma soon.”

“Ah…!”

One of the failure penalties of the common quest.

For a certain period, a certain probability that a monster wave will hit Juma, the only Union Village in the new continent, frequented by all his acquaintances.

This event was a great opportunity to assess the ability of Byulcho and to raise its reputation, so Guild Master wouldn’t miss it.

“Then Biyemi…”

“I have to go now. The bastard here doesn’t seem to be coming anyway. Right? Chuckle.”

“That, there’s something…”

Biyemi’s ability to subtly criticize was still unchanged.

He wanted to support Guild Master, but the fire on his feet was more urgent. Biyemi seemed to know it, gave a nod, and finally bade him farewell.

“Then see you next time.”

“Yes, Biyemi, be careful and see you next time-”

Crunch crunch…

“Huh?”

(To be continued…)
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Smiling, Leeha, parted ways with Biyemi, only to suddenly flinch at an unexpected noise, raising his head and gun barrel.

“Who’s there?”

Something rustled from the branches of a tree. Quite distant, but not enough for Leeha to miss it.

“Biyemi-ssi! You heard that, right? There’s something in the tree! A paleo?”

“Wh, what noise…hehe, you heard something again?”

Leeha furrowed his eyebrows and asked, but all Biyemi did was dismiss his question with a wave of his hand and lowered his head. She didn’t even look up.

“Really? You didn’t hear that? There was movement.”

“It’s probably a bird. In the jungle, one wouldn’t know how big the bird might be, hehe. It reminds me of hunting eagles with Ha Leeha-nim and Jin Gonggong.”

“Ah, a bird?”

“Hehe, indeed, since that time, halihali-nim was different. I never would have thought he’d use the scent of gunpowder so efficiently.”

Biyemi closed his eyes reminiscing about the past.

Recalling memories from when exactly? Leeha lowered his gun cautiously, observing his as if savoring the thoughts.

‘Could Biyemi, who possesses such skill….. have not heard it? Or, was it truly a bird sound?’

The bird sound Leeha heard was clearly different from what Biyemi described.

Leeha, who had to hack his way through the jungle to get here, had made mental notes of the various sounds he had encountered. But, seeing Biyemi’s overwhelming confidence, he couldn’t stay on edge alone any longer.

Biyemi had arrived here before Leeha, surveyed the area before Leeha, and therefore would have known more about the area than Leeha.

So, if she said she didn’t hear anything, Leeha figured it should be obvious he didn’t hear anything either.

“Then, we – no, I will go and check.”

“We?”


Seeing Leeha tilt his head, Biyemi’s eyes briefly widened. However, his expression quickly returned to normal.

“Hehe, Jin Gonggong came to my mind, just forget it. Anyway, be careful and let’s hunt together again sometime.”

“Oh, yes. Take care too, Biyemi-ssi.”

Biyemi quickly moved away from Leeha.

Looking at his receding figure, Leeha tilted his head to look up at the dense jungle trees. Although the branch seemed to tremble slightly, this time, no sound was heard.

‘Wind… no, there was no wind. So, was it really a bird? Well, that’s not important right now.’

The information he received about Monkey paleo and Snake paleo. This jungle was more or less a crossroad to the distant visible volcano.

Although paleos themselves rarely share information, they aren’t completely clueless.

‘Good. The first to conquer is Monkey paleo.’ With a glimmer of hope that he might gather some information there, Leeha hastened his footsteps.

Just like how Leeha disappeared from Biyemi’s sight, she was watching Leeha with a lowered gaze.

Only when she was completely certain he was out of sight, she lifted his head.

“What’s he up to? If he had been caught by Ha Leeha-nim, he wouldn’t have been left with bones.”

Scowling, Biyemi griped, but the direction she was looking at only contained thick trees.

Biyemi glanced back and forth between the tree and the direction Leeha disappeared. Nodding his head, she spoke, “You can come out now. If you don’t want to die, you better pay more attention to my signals in the future.”

That was a cue.

As soon as Biyemi finished speaking, something in the tree branches swooshed, revealing its presence.

“Hehehe! As expected, you’re a fun outsider. Could it be that you are telling me to heed your words? Even if that’s true, why would an assassin ranked fifth have to be careful?”

An assassin with cat ears who had been hiding in the tree laughed. He followed Biyemi’s gaze to the direction where Leeha disappeared.

“Even after dying once by him, such words aren’t funny.”

“That was because you were tricked by your own surprise. Shin Nara included, I didn’t think you’d be there.”


The two remembered a quest from sometime ago where they tried to assassinate the king of Fibiel. The Quest had brought nothing but regret for Petyr, and Biyemi wasn’t any more satisfied either.

“It’s not wise to think of Ha Leeha as the person he used to be. You, too, have experienced the New Continent Expedition, so you might think you know him… but he is different now.”

Biyemi had begun to acknowledge just how unique a user Ha Leeha was.

The main character from the time of golden eagle experienced a complete promotion in Biyemi’s perception. Moreover, just think of where he is now.

“Huh?”

“Right now… He’s at a point I can hardly catch up with.”

Petyr looked at Biyemi standing like a cat on a tree branch.

“Puhihihit, nice expression. The user who Dame Shin trusts, relies on and Nguyen is envious of… what a surprise!”

“It’s over, there’s no point in discussing it with you. By the way, did you get any message?”

“Yes, Yes!”

“What?”

“I’m not telling you—Puhihihit!”

Petyr spoke and then swiftly, he flew through the tree branches.

A place which had many footholds was particularly preferable for him being an acrobatic assassin. Watching the assassin dart around the jungle like his own room, Biyemi shook his head.

“That delusion… Why would Ha Leeha have come here? For me, it was because of this…

Wherever Ha Leeha goes, there is gain. This thought, which had basically become a rule, flashed through Biyemi’s mind.

Following Ha Leeha would undoubtedly lead to some information or item.

‘However…’

Right now, Biyemi had more urgent matters.

He had to hold hands with Petyr, use the force that Petyr practically controlled, the “Midnight Circus”, to deal with his matters.


‘You must keep your appointments first to be polite. No, it’s Lizardia etiquette. Keke’, Biyemi held a water balloon-like container in his hand. The dagger he usually used was safely tucked into the sheath on his thigh.

Shush!

Shortly after the disappearance of the Mio Tribe ranked 5th, the number of Lizardia tribes also disappeared in an instant.

“The direction is right… How far did Biyemi appear?”

Even after Biyemi separated, the paleos couldn’t be spotted for quite some time.

Part of it was because Ha Leeha himself had walked slowly, but above that, Biyemi’s range of action was more curious.

‘He said to be careful with the Snake paleos, but they are good guys. They must have completed the familiarity process. Then what about the Monkey paleos?’

You will love the Monkey paleos, Ha Leeha. That was all Biyemi had said.

He didn’t say much about his assessment of them.

He didn’t say they were nice, easy to handle, or had any specific characteristics.

‘Uh, just teasing with words. But didn’t he mention he didn’t actually meet the Monkey paleos?’

Slap, slap.

It was a reasonable assumption for Ha Leeha.

And then he walked again for about an hour. Finally, something caught Ha Leeha’s eye.

“…You said I’d like it?”

An artificially erected cross, and hanging from it was a skeleton. It was not a Palleo’s skeleton, but a ‘human-shaped’ one.

Instinctively, he knew this was a sign indicating ‘No Trespassing’.

‘Wait a minute, isn’t this the area of the Snake paleos?’

Ha Leeha scanned his surroundings, scratching the back of his head.

The path he had just walked on wasn’t visible due to the dense jungle. Can he remember the path and directions perfectly in a place like this?

‘There’s a chance… Biyemi mixed it up.’

He could have confused the directions of the Snake paleos and the Monkey paleos. Ha Leeha looked down at his Black Bass.

The bullet he had loaded while making a bet with Biyemi was still there.’Whisper-‘

As he was about to open up his friend window to check Biyemi’s location, Leeha lowered his head.

Would he really doubt the person who had kindly given him directions and information in this unfamiliar place? To Leeha, it was a rather rude behavior.

“Ah, it must be right. He’s not a stranger anymore. Why would the members of Kijung’s guild lie to me?”

Leeha decided to trust Biyemi.

There was definitely a reason why the wistful memories of the ‘Eagle Swordmaster’ era, which Biyemi had mentioned earlier, made Leeha sentimental. Moving forward by overriding the mark of ‘approaching is death’, Leeha stumbled after only five steps.

Screech—–!

“Woah, woah!”

A branch, filled with great force, sprung up like a whip, hanging Leeha upside down.

Thud- Jangling..!

And then a rock, acting as the counterweight to maintain Leeha’s upside-down posture, fell. Simultaneously, a dense square frame made of wood flew over from both left and right, not to miss even a person hanging upside down, and it joined together.

“Yikes, what is this?! Jellypong! Cut this off!”

『Mowoo, mowowow!』

Despite being flustered, the most profound feeling was tension.

Set a trap right in front of the danger sign? Even a beginner among beginners wouldn’t set a trap near a danger sign. That’s usually when people are most alert—right after discovering such a sign.

‘I thought so, too—’ Is this a trick designed to take advantage of that assumption?

While waiting for Jellypong to break the wood frame that was interwoven like bars and cut the string tied to his ankle, Leeha tried to collect his thoughts.

But no news came.

『Mowoo, myong, myong, myong— Mow?!』

“What? Jellypong, ‘Combat Mode: Agility’!”

Jellypong couldn’t exert its strength. If switched to combat mode, Jellypong’s attack power would be unimaginable. However, even in that mode, Jellypong couldn’t put Leeha down.

‘…what is this?’

The sound was astonishing.

Jellypong’s sharp sword-like arm was definitely striking a frame made of wood. However, every time it hit, the sound of metal echoed.

“Target, the joint! It’s combined from two half-frames, so the joint must be crude-”

Kaang-! Kaang-!

Despite Leeha’s change in direction, Jellypong’s arm immediately moved but the joint was the same.

Was it possible that a half-frame flying from both sides in the air could combine so solidly in a mid-air cage?

‘Moreover, what exactly is its material… Doesn’t it break even if Jellypong hits it?’

Though it looked like an ordinary tree, the sound when struck and the toughness resisting the attack was a level above ordinary wood.

Leeha, hanging upside down barely touched the window frame.

It undoubtedly felt like wood to the touch.

“It’s wood… no, it’s not wood. Even if it’s enhanced with mana, it can’t be this strong.”

It wasn’t just Leeha who was considering things realistically. He had seen plenty of Middle Earth’s fortification-related skills.

Unless it’s a spell that a dragon would walk, it’s impossible to make ‘timber’ so strong that even Jellypong can’t cut it.

“In that case, this is-”

Rustle, rustle-!

At that moment, another sound was heard nearby. Three shadows, parting the grass, revealed themselves.

“Another pathetic one got caught.”

“It’s definitely a human anyway.”

Leeha could identify them in an instant. Those alternating between walking on two legs and four. They were shadows of people, but not of the human kind.

‘In fact… they have armor and weapons.’ Unlike other paleos, these monkey paleos, equipped with weapons, were approaching Leeha.

Leeha accessed the skill window to look at the initial skills.

If they attack, he should run away immediately. But if he escaped from here? The journey to the new continent’s volcano would be even further away.

‘What am I going to do then…

The monkey paleos approached and stared at Leeha. Despite being hung upside down, Leeha never averted his eyes.

(To be continued…)
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“It’s the first time I’ve seen a human who isn’t this flustered.”

“No, it’s not the first time. There was that guy last time.”

“Indeed. Now that you mention it, there was also that other…

“Ugh.”

The clan warriors exchanged glances and nodded in agreement.

‘That guy from last time? Would that be Biyemi? What does that other one mean?’

He thought he hadn’t met paleo of Wonseung, but had they already met? However, the thought was cut off.

“Hmmm… All right. Let’s take him. Contact Lord Koba.”

Wonseung and his group didn’t kill him. With a soft voice, he commanded Jellypong to stay still.

“Heh heh.”

“… Do you find this funny, human?”

“No, not at all. This is just a bit surreal.”

“Surreal? This situation?”

Looking at the face of the monkey man, he grinned. The monkey man looked at him as if what just happened was absurd, and he shook his head.

‘Yes, it’s surreal. This is something that might come out of a cartoon… Being tied upside down like this and being transported.’

Like a wild boar captured by tribesmen.

He was being transported, hanging upside down tied to a wooden stick. Throughout all of this, his observation of the group led by Wonseung, the paleos, never ceased.

‘There are so many types of monkeys. What could these be?’

Normal paleos would have Brown fur. This made him think of the black Gorilla paleos from the city of Harhei. They looked like gorillas because of their black fur, but their body structure was different.


‘Orangutan… No, that’s not it. Chimpanzee? Is it a type of chimpanzee?’

He knew that Orangutans typically have light Brown fur. This was based on the movie he watched about monkeys ruling the earth. However, this was not incorrect.

“Hmm, I’m not certain, but it seems there are quite a few traps of this nature around here?”

“What?”

“No, I noticed that you keep veering left for a while, then suddenly turn right, and just keep zigzagging around. If you were going to the tribe, you would have gone straight.”

Upon hearing this, one of the paleos scowled for a moment, then signaled another behind him.

“Cover his eyes.”

“Okay.”

Despite his eyes being forcibly covered with a thick cloth, his smile did not fade.

‘I thought so.’

He had no regrets.

In addition to observing their systematic movements, he had discovered quite a few trap activations.

‘Only one look is difficult. Once you find one, the rest are easy. This area is absurdly saturated with traps.’

Who were they being so cautious of? Considering it was a human, there were quite a few odd details.

‘Remembering that, there was a human skull earlier. And they said they saw a ‘human’ who wasn’t flustered. Who could that be?’

In his confusion, he considered that ‘human’ might have been Biyemi, but that couldn’t be the case.

He’s human outside of Middle Earth, but inside the game, isn’t he a lizard, the lizard people?

‘The NPC paleos wouldn’t mix that up.’

Removing Biyemi from consideration, it means there must have been at least one other human user here. If the bones of the human and the unflustered human are two different people, then at least two.

‘Still, could that be Fernand-ssi’s remains?’


He chuckled at the thought. When considering users who could make it here, there were few candidates.

Considering personalities, perhaps Fernand and Lee Jiwon. There could be another outsider, but no one else immediately sprung to his mind.

As he sorted through his thoughts, the noisy voices in the background slowly started to become coherent words. When the rumblings became recognizable languages, he realized that he had arrived at the paleo tribe.

“You’re back.”

“So the alarm really did ring. We have another fool who fell into the trap.”

“What’s that? Who’s it?”

“Seems like a human.”

“Again? Where are these unfamiliar races coming from?”

Being blindfolded somehow gave them a clue about their characters. There were no chaotic or rowdy vibes like the typical paleos.

They were mostly close to primitive tribes with barely any trace of civilization, but now? In contrast, it seemed as though the evolved paleos were evaluating these lowly ones.

“Argh! Please put me down gently, gently!”

“…Truly amazing. You can say such things in this situation.”

“I wonder if you could still laugh when we split open your belly.”

Thud, they violently threw him onto the ground. After doing so, the paleos untied his blindfold.

“No, the disposal should be left to Lord Koba. Let’s take him there.”

“What are we supposed to do with this…”

“I’ll carry it.”

They moved with him in tow, removing the Black Bass in its entirety.

He bit his lip slightly at this juncture. Without the Black Bass, he couldn’t escape via teleportation.

To ensure his own safety, he needed to fully understand their tendencies.


“By ‘Lord Koba’, do you mean the Guardian Deity?”

“Guardian Deity?”

“Eh? The mystical creature and the Guardian of the paleo tribe-”

“Pathetic. You think we would believe in such superstitions. Lord Koba is far superior to those called mystical creatures. Besides, he is our leader of the bonobo paleos.”

“Really……

“What do you mean by ‘really’?”

Listening to the paleos’ answer, he nodded his head.

He couldn’t be certain if there was a race like bonobo among the primates, but their tendencies were more crucial than their tribal name.

“You guys are different from the other paleos. You are much more intelligent and developed. Although the structure of the village is similar… Are those structures firm-like that trap earlier? Do you use some kind of magic?”

“….”

They just sniffed in disdain without answering, although his expression had somewhat improved. Indeed, no race dislikes praise.

While they were somewhat aggressive, it could be attributed to the penalty from failing the common quest. Although they’re being treated like sacrifices, he still liked them.

‘The gorillas developed to the point of creating cities underground, but that was entirely due to Kaztor.’

Kaztor introduced them to magic and technology. If it weren’t for him, Ugly Monkey Harhei would have died without becoming a mystical creature.

At this point, these bonobo paleos were the most developed of all the paleos he had ever met.

And if they were this developed? They would most certainly know about the ‘Volcano’, which wasn’t too far from here.

“Lord Koba. We have brought a human.”

-Same human as that one huh. Come in.

“Yes.”

One of the bonobo paleos politely opened the door. He couldn’t help but be in awe.

‘Wow, what is this… a king?’

They lined up on either side, just like ministers of a monarchy, with the king at the forefront. The white bonobo sitting on the throne was undoubtedly their chieftain.

But what was more surprising was not just this highly-developed civilization of bonobo paleos or the Snow-white mystical creature, but something else.

“I see, as he said earlier. You are Ha Leeha.”

“You, you know me- how-”

The ‘leader’ of the bonobo paleos, Koba, recognized him. His eyes nearly popped out.

Watching his sudden change of expression, the Snow-white bonobo grinned. Koba, savoring his disarray, shrugged his shoulders.

“What’s so strange? Already, on this land of Erika, you’re one of the most renowned people. Not only about Aibex, but I also know all about what came from Harhei. You’ve become friendly with many of the paleo tribes near the western coast. It’s been a while since I’ve seen the mystical creatures from there.”

“……Ah!”

New Continent Common Fame! He slapped his forehead in realization.

Achievements from completing tasks that granted 100% intimacy shone in strange places.”There were things I thought I was lucky to get…”

The intimacy achievement would always grant something extra apart from the stats, which differs based on the rank. Leeha hurriedly opens his character screen to check his reputation on the new continent.

The reputation he had built with various paleo tribes, doubled with the effect from the Hall of Fame, left even Leeha gaping in astonishment.

“Yes…. I see.”

“All paleos in the Erika Continent that lack previous intimacy will harbor hostility toward the player.”

“If you approach paleo tribes without any intimacy or a reputation in the Erika continent, you may be attacked.”

The two penalties for failing the common quest were clear and serious warnings. But what is the characteristic of Middle Earth? They never just let you die!

“Based on your intimacy and Erika Continent’s common reputation values, the attitude of the paleos can change.”

This line in the penalty clause essentially saved Leeha.

Just as Koba said, Leeha is among the top 5 who have the highest reputation on the new continent.

“I felt strangely relieved… was it because I unconsciously understood the advantage?”

Leeha looked at Koba with a relaxed expression and gave a greeting.

“I apologize for greeting you in this manner. I assure you I had no intention of intruding illegally. I just set foot here because there was a place I wanted to visit.”

“You would have said the same even if you had intruded illegally, wouldn’t you?”

“Yes, would I?”

Leeha’s peace of mind began to waver once again because Koba’s tone was a bit different.

It wasn’t something that could be said by someone who simply knows the high-ranking Leeha. More detailed and precise information.

“That guy told me everything, including your speech patterns and habits.”

Koba actually knew about Leeha.

“……Who…… Who told you that? Biyemi? Was it Lizardia Biyemi?”

“Biyemi? Who is that?”

The first person that came to Leeha’s mind was Biyemi, of course. However, Koba shook his head.

“Then Fernand? Lee Jiwon?”

“I’ve heard of Fernand and Lee Jiwon, but they’ve never been here.”

Like Leeha, Koba knew the users with a high reputation on the new continent. But neither of them had discussed Leeha.

‘Who could it be? Someone who knows me well enough to talk about my speech patterns… and could come here? I have no idea.’

Could it be that Leeha doesn’t know this person, but they know Leeha? Leeha’s mind began to churn.

“He said I’d find something interesting from you. Despite all the complaining.…… I had high hopes.”

“What do you mean by that-”

“Who could the person who told me all about Leeha be, who can make us so happy?”

Koba scratched his chin and smiled.

“You said you had a question, didn’t you? Then entertain us. If you satisfy us, we’ll satisfy you.”

Leeha looked at Koba with a puzzled expression, not understanding the sudden role he was expected to play.

“You can stay here.”

“……I just stay here?”

“You can go if you want. But it would disappoint Koba.”

The bonobo paleo who discovered and transferred Leeha shrugged and left. Once the door closed with a thud, Leeha started to slowly sort out the situation.

(To be continued…)
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Arcane Sniper 566 “Let’s think this through. I was brought to the vicinity of bonobo paleo.”

One step, two steps.

“Here, there are beings who seem to know me.”

Three steps, four steps.

“They gave me a spacious and empty house, bigger than your average one-room, suggesting I should please them somehow…

Five steps, six steps. You’ll have to take six steps to reach the wall in this large house.

“So… what then? What do they want me to do? Cook them some bamboo dishes?”

What could they imply by asking for satisfaction? I’ve had a fair idea about the “Intimacy” in the Middle Earth system, but this situation was entirely unexpected.

‘Fortunately, I was not attacked.’

I had my weapon, the Black Bass, still hanging over my shoulder.

They returned my weapons promptly. My sanity would have preferred to escape such a ludicrous situation, but it wasn’t possible.

‘If they have set the stage like this, I can’t just leave. More than anything… I’ve got to find out who ‘that guy’ is.’

The bonobo paleo saw something in me that reminded them of ‘that guy.’ Was it the face? Or just the general likeness of a human being?

“Um… Who is this guy? He gossips behind NPCs? Who does that?”

Alexander wouldn’t do it, byemi has already confirmed he wouldn’t, and nobody should have come this far.

“Sigh! This is just spinning in circles. I should get out and see.”

The priority is to understand the tendencies of the bonobo paleo to satisfy them.

“Ah!”

As soon as I walked out, I had to pause.

“Looks like a human.”


“Indeed, quite similar.”

“Do they use that thing instead of a tail?”

“That human was quite intelligent back then. Is this one as well?”

Just when I stepped out of the house, I was surrounded by the bonobo who were keenly observing me; I quickly scanned them back.

‘They’re definitely distinct. Their concept of clothing is more defined.’

Other paleos were practically naked. However, bonobo paleo had a clear concept of outfits, and not merely for covering themselves but properly fashioned according to their characteristics.

‘Just looking at their clothes, you could differentiate between white-collar and blue-collar. Even glasses… It is almost like a human society, isn’t it?’

Leeha mildly bowed towards the bonobo and started walking. The most intriguing part was the ‘paleo’ maintaining their form.

Other paleos up to this point had maintained a small human form, transforming only when they had to exert their abilities.

But here? From the bonobo trapped initially to all bonobo now, all maintained their transformed state.

‘The Gorilla paleos were like this as well. Do primate paleos prefer this form more? No, that’s not it. I don’t often remember seeing a Gorilla paleo with a human form.’

There was a definite distinction between the human and animal form in the Red Goats, Great Cormorants, eels, badgers, dogs, cows, and so forth. But the Gorilla paleo? I suddenly recollected that I’ve hardly seen a paleo with a human form in the Grid City.

‘The same goes here… It’s intriguing. It is possible that primate paleos as similar to humans do not have such a distinction inherently?’

Still, it was too early to reach a conclusion.

At least finding one more primate paleo will allow me to find answers somewhat.

While roaming around the village, which felt just like a movie set about a space escape, I continued observing them. The general grocery store chain shops and the restaurants were a surprise, but reaching the library pushed my surprise to its limits.

“The mermaids in the Dragon King’s Palace weren’t even this smart- If the NPCs here are of this level, living on the old continent might’ve been- Hmm?”

A peculiar sight caught my eye mid-sentence. I hadn’t noticed it before as I was too busy following the street from my empty house.

It was a building situated somewhere in the middle of the village. The roof was dotted with several chimneys emitting smoke. The material was evidently wood, but the smoke spiraling from the chimneys made the building’s purpose clear.

“… A factory?”


I decided to take a sneaky look inside. The blast of heat that hit me as I entered the wooden interior plainly indicated the building’s purpose.

“Add more fullering! I’m losing strength!”

“The hardness and density of the peachwood are increasing! We’re currently at level 10, but we need to push it up to level 13!”

“There’s no way it’ll be satisfied at just 13! We need to push it up to at least 15 for Lord Koba! Pour in more lava!”

“Understood! Starting the pump! Don’t stop the fullering! Heave ho! Heave ho!”

They sung their work songs, hammering, shaving, lighting fires, and moving things. The heat in the forge was unbearable but they seemed unaffected.

“…Lava?”

I doubted what I had just heard.

Lava in the middle of the jungle? But looking at the complex machinery the bonobo were operating, I couldn’t deny the possibility of lava.

Like a massive steel mill, all I could see was hot molten iron flowing like lava.

‘So they just call it lava? Wait a minute. But the canal seems to be made of wood? The whole building is made of wood too!’

Whether it was molten metal or not, the fact that the canal seemingly made of wood could bear such a temperature seemed absurd to me.

‘If it were normal wood, it should have been burnt to ashes. It’s not just the fire. Didn’t they say something about the wood’s density earlier? 10?’

If they were referring to the hardness scale of a rock, then a hardness of 10 corresponds to a diamond. I had never heard of any rock with a hardness of 15.

‘Insane. So they’re saying this wood is as hard as a diamond and they are trying to make it even harder?’

I watched their work with wide eyes. The act of hardening the wood and making it sharper was just the tip of the iceberg.

Essentially, they were making ‘hand tools’.

These wooden implements were then used to skillfully handle all materials.

Starting with glass, onto metal, ore, and even melting and molding rubber.

‘Indeed… That’s it.’ I don’t know how they did it. Yet, the ‘wood’ bonobo paleo tribe was manufacturing was something even Jellypong could not cut. As I left the central forge of the bonobo paleo tribe, I sorted out my thoughts.


What should I do to satisfy them?

The things that Koba, the leader of bonobo paleo, mentioned from the very beginning.

The fact that the building situated in the middle of the village was a large-scale ‘forge’ resembling a factory.

Despite already having great food, the library and bookstore reflect their intense interest in learning.

‘Intellectually curious NPCs. I can’t win them over with just cooking.’ Considering all these factors, there was only one way I could please and satisfy them.

After observing the bonobo paleo tribe all day, I returned to the house assigned to me. One of those who had been with me from the trap was dawdling near my front door.”Did you make any progress?”

“Huh? What’s your name?”

“Uh? Pygmy.”

Pygmy didn’t seem to mind the lack of direct answer.

Even though their familiarity remained at 0%, they had been treating Pygmy as a ‘customer’.

“Pygmy-ssi, I have to go somewhere briefly. Is that going to be okay?”

“Hmm, if you can’t satisfy us and try to run away–”

“No, no, it’s not about running away. Rather, it’s something I must do to satisfy you.”

“Huh?”

Pygmy tilted his head, unable to comprehend the ideas brewing behind Leeha’s smiling face.

“Well, now that I know what you like, I just need to bring that.”

“What do you expect to bring? If you think we’ll be satisfied with a simple gift, you’re gravely mistaken.”

“Uh-huh, I’m aware. Then, see you tomorrow morning!”

Watching Leeha’s departure, Pygmy squinted.

“Hmm, he caught our attention in an instance. But I’m not sure why I was jealous of him.”

Pygmy turned his back to go and report to Koba.

It was only natural that the bonobo paleo district was bustling the next morning.

“Hey, what’s that?”

“A human? No, it’s much smaller than a human.”

“But it looks older than a human! How fascinating!”

The bonobo chattered at the sight of the person with Leeha. Equally bewildered were the people around Leeha.

As far as Leeha knew, he was the only person who could ‘whisper softly.’

“What on earth! Did you bring me to chat with the monkeys?! I have a mountain of work to do.”

“No, just, just have a look and go back. Have you ever seen me suggest something you’d regret doing?”

“Well, well, you– I mean, you, the Lord, could! Always with your devilish whisperings–”

“Hey, if you’re going to complain that much, you might have to step down as the ‘Chief Engineer’.”

“Wha–! You think I can’t do that?!”

“Hehe, calm down. Just take a look, the Beard Brothers have already started focusing. It would be problematic if the chief continued making fuss. Isn’t it, Bottleneck-ssi?”

The ones Leeha brought were the Chief Engineer Bottleneck of Gaza City and his right-hand man, the Beard Brothers.

‘bonobo paleo values craftsmanship the most. So, it’s inevitable that they would be interested in the finest blacksmith from the old continent.’

While oblivious to Leeha’s thoughts, the smaller-than-human bonobo and the likewise smaller-than-human Dwarf were checking each other out.

“So that’s your answer?”

“Yes. That’s the answer.”

Koba smoothed his chin and tilted his head, unable to comprehend Leeha’s confident expression.

The only company alongside him was a scruffy-bearded dwarf. He was a creature that even Koba, the mystical beast of bonobo paleo, never saw before.

“If you think of us as savages like those from other districts… We don’t have cannibalistic habits. Offering such a thing as a sacrifice would be of no use. To be frank, it seems like you are weak–”

“What, what’s this? Why is this despicable ape talking about strength in front of me? The apes, even the strongest among you wouldn’t be as sturdy as my arm trained with hammering.”

Leeha was greatly surprised by Bottleneck. Given the Dwarves, only three including Bottleneck and Beard Brothers were there. Adding Leeha, if they were allies, there would be only four.

However, there were well over a hundred in the bonobo paleo, including Koba, surrounding them. It’s audacious to shout at the leader with such a small force.

“You! How dare you disrespect Lord Koba!”

“What! Do you mean to threaten us with those clumsy weapons of yours?”

“Clumsy? This is made with the best technique passed down by Lord Koba himself!”

While Koba himself remained silent, his followers, bonobo paleo, could not.

Pygmy, standing next to Koba, raised his weapon and turned red.

“That’s laughable. The technique is a term used when creating this kind of item. It’s not a term to be used when making something peculiar which isn’t exactly a spear nor a tool, nor a weapon!”

Undaunted, Bottleneck walked forward.

Leeha had hastily brought him, but he always had an item in hand.

A blacksmith’s hammer symbolizing a blacksmith.

It was Bottleneck’s personal item made of a material that would never wear out even when melted and hammered on any material.

(To be continued…)
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Bottleneck approached Pygmy and offered him an item.

Pygmy was reticent to forgive the arrogantly smiling dwarf, but he was in front of Lord Koba, so he couldn’t make a scene.

“Do you think they’d even consider something like this?”

“Is a mere hammer being regarded as a worthy tool? Minimum standard should be…”

Bottleneck offered his hammer, and Pygmy held out his weapon, which was a blend of pickaxe and spear.

The moment they confirmed what each other was holding, Pygmy let out a laugh.

‘Done. Heh… It’s done. It’s done!’

Suddenly, Pygmy became dumbfounded as if he had tasted something sweet, and so did Bottleneck, who was trembling from head to toe, even though only his back was visible.

“How is it, Pygmy?”

“Lord, lord Koba… this- this thing, please take a look.”

“Hmm?”

Koba made a nonchalant face.

Bottleneck’s stupefied expression was obvious from where Koba was sitting.

However, the moment he caught sight of Pygmy’s reaction when he turned to hand him the object, Koba grew dubious.

Pygmy’s bewilderment was as evident as Bottleneck’s.

“…What is this hammer head made of? It feels similar to a mineral… no, stone… it seems to be made of a material that doesn’t exist in this world.”

“Damn… you figured it out right away. It’s made of a meteorite fragment. It was crafted with a piece of adamantine. It’s an heirloom from our great-grandfather who sculpted the moonlight. When our great-grandfather, the greatest blacksmith in Hell’s Anvil, crafted this hammer – no, that’s not the important part!”

Although his words rang of pride, his tone was far from joyous.

He was more interested in hearing an explanation about the item Pygmy was handing him than explaining his own hammer.


“What… what is this tool? The handle looks like it’s made from a lightning-struck jujube tree, but its strength and elasticity are absurd. How was it carved to become like this? The blades too! Damn it! I swear by the beard of Vulcan! I’ve never seen nor heard of a mineral with this color! I haven’t tried chipping it, but such toughness and perfect sharpening retention at this level, is this iron?”

“We call the process ‘enhancement’.”

The master recognizes the master. Sparks flew from the eyes of bonobo, with his sparse fur, and from the eyes of the hairy dwarf.

‘Is the common point of masters always a white beard? A white-haired monkey and a white beard—Bottleneck, when did he last wash? His beard is always so dirty…

The one who stopped the snickering Leeha in the middle of such historic moment was Bottleneck’s reaction.

“Enhancement… Enhancement! Oh, damn it! No wonder the color of the ‘Cobalt Blue Python’ has been weird recently! Even though I never touched it, they asked me to increase the explosive charge, and I sensed something strange… They did it here, they enhanced the ‘Cobalt Blue Python’ here! Right?”

“Huh? What’s up?”

Leeha’s eyes popped out in surprise as he listened to Bottleneck’s suspicions.

What is the item Bottleneck is talking about? Who uses it?

Koba, upon hearing Bottleneck’s words, didn’t question anything. He simply opened his mouth with a satisfied smile.

“Ha, I was hoping you wouldn’t discover this place… but I knew something interesting would happen if you did. It seems I was right.”

“That… the person who said that-”

“Yes. A human named Luger visited. He asked to ‘enhance’ his rifle.”

“–Luger!”

Leeha felt a chill running down the back of his head.

“Humph, hmm, so? They’re using lava instead of groundwater to cool it down?”

“Yes, we first cool the object heated over 1500°C down with 600°C lava, then use the spring water blessed by Lord Koba for rapid second cooling while shaping.”

“It is theoretically plausible, but hell, actually seeing it in person… Beard Brothers! Are you seeing this?”

“Yup, boss.”

“When we get back to City Gasuaro, let’s research on how to expand our blacksmith in this way too.”


“Hey, where are you bringing the lava from, don’t talk nonsense like that……

“One way or another, it’ll work out! If the lord and that, that redhead help out, we can make it happen!”

Among the bonobo paleo tribe’s village, the chatter could be heard from the factory located at the village center. In the distance, sitting on a slightly far-off chair, Leeha watched the factory with great concern. The earlier conversation refused to leave his mind.

‘Luger… What a folly, why did I not realize sooner?’

Luger did not conceal anything. His secret was already exposed.

Didn’t his weapon color look oddly different when they met for the last time in Gaza City to neutralize ‘Toon’?

‘You foolish punk, you brushed off the weapon color change as a mere mood change! There is no way that the weapon’s color would change based on a ‘mood’ in Middle Earth! Even if he wouldn’t answer when asked, I should’ve asked about the reason for the change in the weapon color. If I had gotten even a tiny hint, I could’ve somehow empowered my weapon.’

‘If I’d done so, the consequences of the common quest would’ve been different. I had no effect with the ‘Mana Vaporizing Shot’, but, Toon had survived the single shot empowered with the title of ‘Shadow Hitman’… If I’d made a full-power attack, I might have killed Toon in one stroke……

Leeha was filled with a sense of guilt.

The right hand man of Bluebeard Le was so powerful to an extent that it could survive despite being pierced by an icicle.

The Middle Earth’s gameplay and its storyline wouldn’t have shifted as drastically if he had been able to kill them straight away.

The thought of him missing out on such an opportunity even made it hard for him to sleep at night, causing him to kick his blanket out of frustration.

‘Before the failure penalty of the common quest was applied, Luger had already started his enhancement here! Right here! Alone! By eating up the intimacy! Damn him!’

It would’ve been easier for him to increase his level of intimacy.

The problem was the extremely perilous road that led to this place.

Thanks to Blaugrunn, Leeha had come effortlessly, but any ordinary user wouldn’t have dared to even consider coming here.

Leeha was truly taken aback by Luger’s ability. He held a certain degree of admiration for the raw talent he possessed.

The ‘strong smell’ that enabled Luger to hunt was something even beyond Leeha’s capability.

As Leeha wallowed in his suffering, he suddenly remembered the performance of the ‘Enhancement’.

‘Enhancement… what could possibly be the effect?’


A question to which neither Koba nor the bonobo paleo tribe had given a satisfactory answer. They had only ambiguously replied that ‘it depends on the weapon.’

Leeha was certainly not unaware of the general enhancement system in Middle Earth. Leeha already knew of the basic +1 +2 system similar to other games.

The enhancement that could be done at the users’ level usually only resulted in an overall improvement in durability, most of the blacksmiths roughened and repaired their work.

If a blacksmith in a regular user context wants to ‘create’ it’s always more efficient. Even if they’re of the same grade, the performance is better than store items or drop items. Though it is also more expensive.’

In other words, the concept of enhancement essentially means increasing the overall durability to ensure the weapons are less prone to damage.

However, did Luger come here just to increase his durability?

『”Achievement: Lava Jungle’s bonobo (A+)”』 Congratulations! You have successfully won the complete trust of Erika’s Continental tribe, Koba, and his paleo. Your remarkable achievement and fame in pulling faith from the spirit even with little trade among the paleos in the Erika continent will be well-known.

Rewards: Strength +9, agility +9, intelligence +9, erika Continental Common Reputation +25

You are the ‘Lava Jungle’s bonobo’ achievement’s second registrant.

The details of your achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame until the third registrant, and you will additionally receive 200% of the existing effect.

Rewards: Strength +18, agility +18, intelligence +18, erika Continental Common Reputation +50

Luger was unquestionably the first to acquire. This was the first A+ class intimate achievement after the Golden Carp, but Leeha was not overjoyed.

Because he had been left behind for the first time in a while.

‘That bastard, he was backbiting so much without even telling any good news, wasn’t he?’

There was no way to tell what Luger had actually said. Koba and the bonobo paleos might have exaggerated the conversation.

Ironically, the reason Koba took an interest in Leeha first was that Luger mentioned his name.

However, Leeha still cursed and grumbled about Luger.

After a few minutes, Leeha finally stood up heading towards Koba’s home.

“Lord Koba.”

Koba was engrossed in his book.

Leeha gazed upon the wise ancient bonobo, marvelling anew at his high intellect. Their technological power certainly didn’t rely merely on mana.

This Bottleneck of surprisingly thorough theoretical focused technological advancement, its origin could have merely been study.

“Hmm, what is it? Haven’t I given you enough information about the ‘Lonely Volcano’ and the magma flowing beneath it?”

Indeed, they had obtained a fair amount of information about their initial target, the ‘Volcano’. However, that didn’t seem too significant at the moment.

“No, it’s not about that.”

As Leeha shook his head, Koba closed his book. The white-haired bonobo slowly approached Leeha.

From Leeha’s expression alone, he knew what was to be discussed and what was desired. It was that kind of face.

“Just as Luger said.”

“Yes?”

“You want to ‘strengthen’… that, right? Luger said you wouldn’t just back down. He said you’d definitely approach to strengthen.”

“Did he… talk about that too?”

Leeha grinned with embarrassment, his mind read like an open book.

The fact that he wanted to strengthen was anticipated, and the friendly attitude? The atmosphere seemed fairly positive. Had Koba not made the last remark, it would have been even more positive.

“So, back then, I also told you to take full advantage.”

Whoosh—!

Leeha saw Koba’s smile rising along with the hologram window.

Looking at the white-haired bonobo revealing his white teeth, there was only one thing Leeha could do.

“You…you bad fellow — You, you! Even though I hesitated, I wanted to help you, even taking care of you and you stab me in the back -”

While wearing a smiling face, profanities poured out of Leeha’s mind.

Yet Leeha did not know. Already a day ago, Luger, confirming Leeha’s ‘position’, grinned and blocked the whisper.

“Why does my ear itch so much? Must be some fool talking.”

Rosily chuckling, Luger was hunting with his enhanced 『Cobalt Blue Python』.

『Foundation of Enhancement: Analysis』

Explanation: “I can make the weapon you carry even more powerful than it is now. But in order to cater to your demand, to know which part, which characteristics to strengthen, I have to know exactly what that weapon is. Of course, we might make errors during the process. The more intricate the design and technology the object carries, the higher the chance of it not being able to be dismantled and reassembled for analysis. It’s especially difficult to concentrate when there are nuisances.”

Koba, the bonobo paleo’s artifact, is requesting a weapon analysis time for enhancement. Leave your enhancement target item to Koba and the bonobo paleo for a certain period of time. However, depending on the rank of the item, there is a possibility that the item may explode, and disappear during analysis.

Content: Enhancement Target Item 『Legendary Black Bass: SASR』 custody

Reward: Analysis Data of Enhancement Target Item

Condition for Failure: When the item is retrieved within the deadline, or during the analysis, if Koba and the bonobo paleo are attacked Failure: The destruction of the secured enhancement target item

– Would you like to accept?

(To be continued…)
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“You want me to entrust my item?”

“If you think it’s possible to quickly and thoroughly enhancing an item you’ve never seen before, then there’s no helping it.”

“No, well, even if I do trust it to you… What if there’s a chance it will disappear halfway through?”

“That hardly happens with any normal item. We aren’t fools, after all.”

Kobalicked his lips and shrugged his shoulders. The actual technological prowess of the paleo Order was unmistakably impressive, enough to garner praise. This was evident from the reactions of Bottleneck and the Beard brothers. But there was a catch in Koba’s words. He had mentioned ‘any normal item.’ And he knew that his weapon was by no means ‘normal.’

“In that case… how high would the chance of disappearance rise for items of a certain grade?”

“Naturally, the rarer it is, the greater the chance. Among us paleo, we have things that were once used by the old heroes. For example, the armor worn by Pygmy’s great-great-grandfather – it’s an ‘Enchanted Garb’ that can instantly move as a whole set, including a helmet, upper and lower parts. No one but I can even touch it.”

Though he didn’t fully understand the explanation about the items, he got the response he was looking for.

‘It means that items of Heroic rank and above have an increased chance of disappearance.’

He had a rough idea of the grade of Luger’s weapon, the “Cobalt Blue Python.”

It was a Legendary rank item, at the very least, just like Black Bass.

Did Luger entrust his weapon knowing the chance of it disappearing? Was he a man capable of such a gamble?

‘I thought he was someone who didn’t trust anyone but himself…’

In this aspect, his assumption was somewhat accurate. Luger was indeed a user who didn’t trust anyone but himself. Seeing his expression, Kobasmiled once again.

“Why do you think Luger entrusted his weapon?”

“Excuse me?”

“I thought you understood when I hinted at it… He talked about you more than anyone else here.”

“Me?”

“Yes. Even when he entrusted his weapon, he muttered that if it were you, it would be okay.”


The man who made Luger take the gamble of entrusting his weapon was none other than him.

The competition among the Three Musketeers to get a step ahead of him did not stop even here.

He imagined Luger’s figure. The proud hunter, who was more like a beast, would surely have found it humiliating to leave his weapon in the hands of another even here.

‘But he accepted it.’

Because of me.

He looked at Black Bass and took a deep breath to steady himself.

“Phew…

“It’s fine if you don’t want to do it. Analyzing a weapon isn’t easy…and, most importantly-”

“How long will it take?”

“Hmm? You’re going to do it?”

“How long will it take-”

“I can’t say for sure. I can’t promise anything. Luger’s weapon, the ‘Cobalt Blue Python’, did you say? That took slightly over two weeks— precisely 19 days.”

At least 19 days. It took 19 days for a Heroic grade item, so how long would it take for a Legendary grade one? He bit his lower lip lightly.

‘There’s also the ‘Lonely Volcano’ quest I heard about from these guys. I have no idea what sort of danger lies in wait there… even if I manage to safely obtain the ‘Fire Flower’…’

The intimidation factor of black dragon Onyx and the other Colored Dragons remained.

Without knowing how to negotiate with them, he absolutely needed his weapon.

He suddenly realized just how much he was relying on Black Bass. Indeed, without a weapon, you were nothing in this harsh Middle Earth world.

‘So… for the even harsher world to come, it’s only right that Black Bass needs to become stronger.’

Most of all, there was the precedent set by Luger. At least they didn’t destroy the ‘Cobalt Blue Python.’

While their techniques might vary a little, considering the properties of his projectile weapon, he wasn’t worried that they would mess up ‘Black Bass.’


“As long as you don’t see a message like ‘Item has vanished in a blue light’, or say something like ‘Oops, my hand slipped’, it should be fine, right?”

“Huh?”

“Please.”

He pressed the acceptance button and extended Black Bass to them.

Kobawas the one taken aback by his proactive behavior. But that surprise was only momentary; perhaps he thought of Luger. Kobaformed a fond smile on his face and thumped his chest.

“Leave it to me.”

“Ah, and also-”

“Hm?”

Just as he was about to turn around, Leeha seemed to remember something and opened his mouth.

“Regardless of how long it takes, if by any chance you break or lose my Black Bass…”

Even though Leeha didn’t finish his sentence, Kobanodded with a dumbfounded expression. It wasn’t just because he understood what Leeha was trying to say.

“… The way you add that is just like Luger.”

There was already a user who had said the exact same thing. Even while chuckling, Leeha never lightened the atmosphere.

The fact that Luger would say something like this was entirely predictable for Leeha. But what was the difference between Luger and Leeha?

Leeha rummaged through his bag and took out a few items.

“Please remember that I have more 『items』 than Luger does. I didn’t earn the highest reputation in New Continent for nothing.”

Leeha, grinning, showed off the Claymore and the Peony Blubell Trap in his hand. At his intimidating, yet non-threatening demand, Kobazipped his lips with a groan.

“Then, I leave it in your capable hands.”

“Ah, sure.”

After the stick comes the carrot. Leeha gave a respectful nod to Kobaand left the place.


For a minimum of 19 days, Leeha had to manage without Black Bass.

‘And the next goal is…’

Leeha looked at a mountain visible from the bonobo paleos’ community.

The 『Lonely Volcano』, which looked considerably closer now and for which he had gained information through the bonobo, awaited Leeha.

“What, whaaat?! You should’ve left that to me!”

“But Bottleneck, you don’t know it yet, do you?”

“Hey you, idiot! Where’s anyone who knows the Musketeers’ weapons as well as I do!”

“So, can you enhance it?”

“That- I’m learning how to do that right now!”

If Bottleneck hadn’t been bouncing around upon hearing that, it would have been even more bizarre.

For some reason, Leeha felt happy hearing the dwarf’s tantrum. He wondered if there were any other NPCs who cared about him this much.

“You can’t learn and apply it immediately. Time doesn’t wait for us.”

Despite his pride, teasing Bottleneck was always a delight for Leeha.

“Eeeek- you only learned fancy words-”

“But Boss, lord has a point. Even if we exchange skills regularly, we may not be able to learn it.”

“Right. Moreover, we don’t know how long it’ll take to install the equipment. We can’t issue a promise like a check.”

“You guys! Are you blacksmiths, or bankers? Talking about checks and such- you need a craftsman’s spirit.”

When the Beard Brothers stepped in, Bottleneck became thoroughly irritated.

But as expected, Bottleneck, the leader of the Gaza City’s craftsmen and a dwarf with a ‘craftsman’s spirit’, was different.

“For the scope!”

“Yes?”

“Leave it to me. If you bring the last button, I will make a scope that doesn’t exist anywhere in the world.”

Perhaps Bottleneck wanted to help Leeha, even if just a little bit.

Leeha considered the NPC’s feelings and nodded.

“Then, when are you planning to leave?”

“Huh, we brought the crystal balls too! We will move on our own, so Lord, just focus on your tasks without worrying.”

“Haha, anyway, I can’t stop you. Understood. But don’t neglect your work while studying here.”

“Yo-you! How dare a castle lord who hasn’t even shown his nose at the castle say that-”

“Argh! I’m leaving! See you next time at Gaza City!”

At the last nagging, he left the bonobo paleos’ community with Bottleneck, who was up in arms, coming after him.

Now there was no sniper rifle hanging heavily from his shoulder. Just two well-gripped Musketeer’s pistols at his waist. Blaugrunn nor Koma, were able to be called in the situation on the Lope continent.

“Really, it’s just you and me now. Right?”

『Myong.』

“Ah, but you see. If I had known it would be like this, I would have waited to apply for the adaptation rate.”

『Myong?』

With the comments trailing, Leeha walked leisurely towards the volcano.

One of the pieces of information about the lonely volcano obtained from the bonobo Paleao tribe was a story related to its inner environment.

‘It was said… even the bonobo people, who scoop up ‘lava’ to form the outlines of their tools in molten iron and use it as coolant, can’t endure the intense heat inside that volcano.’

One of the reasons Leeha hadn’t entered the ‘factory’ of the bonobo tribe was because of the heat. He could observe their actions from a distance, and since merely getting close enough to feel the baking air was sufficient, there was no need to step inside.

“It’s said that we are a race with an inherent resistance to flames. To think we have to go into a volcano so hot that even they avoid it.”

Leeha felt the sensation of the vineyard under his feet even through his shoes. There was no significant variation in the touch, as the alert for the increase in adaptation rate had not yet appeared.

‘Once it reaches 100%… the heat will also feel twice as intense.’ Leeha knew his future. What if his application to raise the adaptation rate was accepted and applied? Entering the lonely volcano to meet the 『Lava lizard』 tribe might even become more difficult.

“There might not be anyone there —

But now wasn’t the time to think about that. At any moment, he needed to hurry and escape from the volcano before the adaptation rate increased.

“Ah, why! At this moment too, I have to continue as if I am under a timed attack in a game.” 『Myong, myong Myong…』

While tugging at his hair but never stopping his steps, Leeha looked at Jellypong, who conveyed a sense of panic.

Beep beep! Beep!

“Huh?”

Leeha suddenly stopped. This wasn’t an alarm from the inside of the game, indicating that he was being called from the outside. Was his allotment of gaming hours over for the day?

“Ugh, as if I don’t have enough time, I also need to go through rehabilitation. It’s killing me.”

Even though Leeha had already gotten used to rehabilitation, the daily examinations had become somewhat tiresome.

If Kijung, or any other person for that matter, saw Leeha’s addiction, it would shake their head and give them chills.

But Kijung and the other users didn’t have the leisure to chat with Leeha.

“A huge monster is appearing before us!” “The number of giant monsters is roughly fifteen! In addition, there are too many trolls and ogres to count!”

“We located Toon! Toon’s location confirmed! It’s drawing near!”

“If we die, Juma will end! Hold the tanker line! We will defend it!”

Because of one of the failure penalties of the common quest, they had to face the first wave of monsters headed for the jointly managed city on the new continent.

“Dieeee!”

“It’s a bleeding abnormality! Healers, cast quickly!”

“Kuwaaaaaaa-n!”

The users, heavily buffed, clashed with the bloodthirsty monsters.

Inside the clamor of teeth and knives, spears and armors clashing, users were screaming out loud to convey their needs.

As little as 100m away from the main gate of Juma City, the interception war began.

“Damn it, trying to defend with the city at our backs— the damn monsters are trying to run away, 『Shield Tackle』!”

Thuuuump-!

When Kijung struck with all his might using the shield, an ogre nearly 5m tall staggered and fell.

(To be continued…)
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Kwooong! Tale and the other dealers from Byulcho galloped towards the downed ogre. Before the ogre could even rise, the dealers swiftly eliminated the monster.

”

There’s no helping it. If we had forts or walls, it would be a different story…”

“A city-sized wall is not sufficient for a siege, isn’t it? Aah, this is such a mess. Casting ‘Multiple Arrow’!” lamented Tale and Bobae, along with Kijung.

The problem with Juma, a city designed for expansion from the start, was its structure was not suitable for internal defense. There were too many routes for the monsters to infiltrate and the walls were too low.

“Save the complaints for later, everyone. I’ll demolish the formation first.

‘Polymorphism: Black Grizzly’!”

Kwooooh!

Its transformation into a grizzly bear and its roar weakened the assault of the rushing monsters. During this brief moment, players from large guilds such as Byulcho, rush, and Patriot, rushed in.

“Follow the bear! Don’t let even one monster reach the town!”

“Think of tower defense, tower defense! Damn it, it’s exhausting having to turn strategy games into RPG!”

The number of monsters rushing in was overwhelming, but the united strength of the assembled players was even more mind-boggling.

Moreover, this was not a ‘siege’, but a ‘siege defense’: there was no issue regarding supplies.

Mages and healers used their mana freely, quickly recovered their mana when they returned to town, and tanks and melee dealers could easily endure under their support.

“You think you’re something just because you’re bigger?!”

“Kwoaaaah!”

Kaang!

A 4m class troll and a warrior’s sword clashed. The resultant sparks were threatening, but no one blinked.

“I would understand if it was Toon, but I won’t be killed by the likes of you guys! ‘Heart Crush’!”


To the players who had participated in the final attack of the common quest, this monster wave was less threatening than feared.

3m to 5m class monsters were common, often found but amongst trolls, ogres, and cyclops. No matter how frightening they appeared, they did not possess Toon’s aura.

However, there were a few problems with a few monsters that were different from ordinary ones.

“A giant monster is approaching! Jeez, this isn’t Godzilla!”

“We have to stop it! Attack the legs first, bring it down!”

Monsters over 15m in size possessed a fierce appearance unlike Toon.

Their strength was indeed formidable, but the trauma that arose merely from seeing their form brought ghastly memories.

A creature that looked like a bipedal hippopotamus, a creature that swung its tail like a massive mace, a creature with a large mouth on its chest that devoured players, and many more.

One attack could easily kill ten players and they led 3-5m class monsters, so ordinary players couldn’t stop these giant monsters.

“Breaking through! Left, left! We are broken through on the left! Requesting reinforcements-”

『Split Buster』

Except for the rankers.

Paaaaa!

With one skill shot from Alexander, the giant hippopotamus’s body was split in half. In a location far from Alexander, Lee Jiwon’s black sword cleaved through space.

Their participation exhilarated the players again. Just as their spirits soared, Bailephus fluttered its wings in the sky.

『Toon, why are you standing still?』

Bailephus couldn’t move carelessly.

Toon, who had fully regained his strength, was watching from over 500 meters away. Even the giant monsters of 15m or more stood only half as tall as Toon.

The gigantic dinosaur, looking intimidating enough to ignore the sense of distance, seemed capable of killing all the players with just a look. 『What’s he aiming for…… Is he expecting Le to return here?』

Ancient gold dragon and dinosaur Toon were like having a staring contest. Even Bailephus couldn’t brashly move, just because Toon’s gaze wasn’t visible.”The monsters are gradually being wiped out!”


“Huu… Let’s keep it up! Hang in there until the end!”

“Sweep them away! Damn, this is the first time we’ve battled for nearly ten hours straight!”

The fierce battle that happened in the front yard of Juma was finally nearing its end. Starting their assault at dawn, the amount that remained to be cleared when the sun set was enough to send chills down the users’ spine. Just as the battle was about to conclude, there was a commotion among the users holding the right side of the front line at Juma. Charging at them were two giant monsters, resembling huge rhinoceroses.

“Just two more of those giant monsters— if we clear them out, we only have small fries left!”

“But how are we going to take down those two! Alexander is over there! We can’t hold on—”

“Move aside.”

“What? Move, move! Everybody move!”

Someone forcefully made their way through the users who were solely focusing on the frontlines.

A user who recognized the invader yelled, but those who were fixated on the frontlines did not hear it.

“Hey, dumbass, if we move, the outer wall will collapse!”

How could they make way for the two charging giant rhinoceroses?

Considering the size and weight of the giant monsters and the earth-shaking vibrations, even a single charge could potentially tear Juma’s outer wall apart.

But, the agitated user’s order to clear the way was not meant for the giant rhinoceroses.

“No, no! Not that! Look behind you!”

“Behind? What’s behind—Oh, my God?!”

The users who looked back hastily retreated, almost tripping over each other.

There she was, half as tall as them, emitting a light that was too conspicuous to miss.

Why didn’t they notice ‘this light’ earlier?

A girl, emitting a dazzling blue light bright enough to hurt your eyes, brushed past them.

“It’s, it’s Ram Hwajung!”


“Dodge! Her mana, her mana is no joke! You’ll get caught in the blast—”

As hurriedly as they dropped their weapons and armor and ran backwards, Ram Hwajung reached her hand toward the frontlines.

Smaller than the rhinos’ horn, but the energy she emitted was anything but small.

『Ice Age』

“Argh!”

“My, my ears!”

“Aaaaah!”

The users clumped their ears and crouched down due to the sudden noise.

The sound was like the world was collapsing, irritating the nerves of Alexander and Lee Jiwon, who were far away.

“What…?”

“Fr, frozen…”

“Two fast-approaching giant monsters are… All frozen…”

It was inevitable. Because Ram Hwajung’s latest and most potent magic, coupled with the maximum amount of mana, froze everything in the frontlines.

“Phew.”

Ram Hwajung took a light breath and turned back toward Juma. A white light radiated from her body.

“Even though everyone you brought is dead, won’t you join the battle, Toon.”

Bailephus glared at Toon. Toon, as if responding to Bailephus’s words, opened his mouth wide and roared.

Ah…… ahhhhh……. 『Crack.』

Baeliphus hesitated for a moment. As for the other users on the surface, no words were needed. The roar alone was powerful enough to make the users falter, but there was no further action.

“Huh? What’s this!”

“Oh, wow. All the bodies that were here just disappeared.”

The ashy corpses of the users had simply evaporated into dust.

The users were more interested in the ashes left behind by the disappearing corpses than their simultaneous disappearance.

“Ah, it’s cleaner now. Let’s see what our unfortunate users have dropped~”

“This is mine!”

“Hold on! That belongs to our guild member, give it back!”

As the users stared at the items and their voices grew louder, the Heat Wave had already disappeared.

It symbolized the end of the first monster wave aimed at destroying Juma.

The happiest point for the users was not that they had successfully blocked one wave. Nor it was the ash left by the dead users.

The change brought by this wave far exceeded their expectations.

“Did our level just increase?”

White neon lights were flashing everywhere. The flashing lights, like fireworks, made the users stare in awe.

There were no special rewards. But for the ‘surviving’ users, a massive amount of experience was granted.

Even the least of them were over level 220, and all the users in the New Continent received a significant level up or a bulk of experience from this single event.

“……Isn’t this a great event? My level has gone up by one, and filled up to 30%.”

Kijung scratched his head, pulling an absurd facial expression.

It was quite a long battle, but could a level simply increase with a single day, a one-time event?

Following Kijung’s shock, the rest of the Byulcho folks were too.

“Hmm, I’ve leveled up by three, Kay.”

“Wow, Tale hyung! Awesome! I mean, my experience is no joke either? It’s at the level of when we discovered New Continent?”

The relatively low leveled Tale had gained three levels and Bobae, the user with the highest level in Byulcho Guild, also gained a large amount of experience.

This was an impossible level through normal Middle Earth play. They gave out the experience that only could be gained by investing at least ten days into quests or by repeatedly going through Dragon Raids!

“Wow, next time we should gather all the guild members. We should post a notice asking even the office workers to take a vacation and attend.”

“Hmm, that’s a good idea, Kay.”

“Ah, Nara! She didn’t listen when I called her. Lately, Ram Hwajung has been climbing like crazy, I don’t know what she’s doing without leveling up. Next time, let’s include our country as well? I’ll drag her by the scruff of her neck if I have to.”

“Okay! It would be perfect if Shin Nara joined. I’ll also invite Leeha.”

“Ah, if Leeha comes, Nara will too. Hehe, sounds good, Kijung.”

Kijung and Bobae were thrilled as they conspired. They were thinking about their relatives.

“…It would have been nice if Biyemi were here too.”

“Yeah. I don’t know what Biyemi is doing these days. She said she was going to intensively level up, but she didn’t attend this leveling event…

“Looking at her location, she seems to be wandering around somewhere in the New Continent.”

“Yes, that’s all I heard too. She doesn’t reply even when I ask if she needs help.”

Looking at the noisy Kijung and Bobae, Tale and Jin Gonggong sighed.

Biyemi, a player who would never miss this kind of event, was nowhere to be seen, and they found it quite regrettable.

“Well, Biyemi will figure it out herself.”

“I guess so. I think I should let Hyein know about this sooner rather than later.”

“Hmm, please do.”

Tale patted Jin Gonggong’s shoulder in comfort. Jin Gonggong, who had become good friends with the original members of Byulcho, was also quickly leveling up.

As the conversations spread, the ‘penalty’ of the shared quest, on the contrary, excited the users.

The overwhelming volume of attacks, intermittent rampages from powerful monsters, and the fear that the Heat Wave might join in at any time meant they had to fight hard. But only if they survive?

In terms of generously granted experience, unlike usual, the Monster Wave had enough incentives to draw users in.

Not only Byulcho, but also guild members from other countries are determined to bring more users into the fray next time, very few users doubted the meaning of this reward.

“…… It’s unlikely that Middle Earth would do this kind of thing.”

“I agree.”

(Continues in the next part…)
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“When did you get here?”

Luger was surprised to see Kidd standing next to him. Until just the fight a few moments ago, he hadn’t noticed Kidd in his sightline.

Yet there Kidd was, standing beside him, having closed the distance without making a sound.

‘He’s grown again.’

Luger’s gaze swept over Kidd, then surreptitiously, he hid the “Cobalt Blue Python” behind his back.

Kidd seemed unaware of Luger’s action, his attention focused on their surroundings instead.

“The way this reward is meant to call users together… The monsters didn’t seem interested in destroying Juma”, Kidd pointed out.

“Hmm, you catch on quick. That’s right. I let two of them go just as an experiment, and they turned right back round after running towards the wall”, Luger grinned.

Kidd nodded, considering the smile on Luger’s face. As part of the Shared Quest, the penalty in the Monster Wave was to protect Juma from destruction.

If Juma was destroyed, the mana relay located in Juma would be destroyed, making teleportation to the new continent impossible.

Yet, in the Monster Wave that had unfolded, Luger and Kidd agreed that there didn’t seem to be an intent to destroy Juma.

“The monsters are designed to fight us?”

“More precisely, to kill us. For some reason… If they wanted to destroy Juma, it would have been faster for Toon to charge in. Isn’t that obvious?”

The bait of huge rewards drawing users in was for their deaths.

It seemed an illogical connection at first, but Luger and Kidd understood it.

This was a truth unknown to the other users. But the two had heard of it.

“Is this what Brown was talking about?”

“All that talk about blowing our heads off… He really did end up giving us valid information. Damn, I still can’t tell whether he’s on our side.”

Luger frustratingly kicked a rock that was at his feet.


What do they do if Brown’s information, which they had set aside because it was too incredible, was accurate?

Even more so for Luger and Kidd, who had yet to meet Elizabeth, wasn’t Brown a leading suspect for the Arcane Sniper?

Kidd holstered his ‘Crimson Geckos’.

Worries aside, for now, they had to move.

With the enemy’s objective clearly revealed, there was no need to dance to their tune.

“We must inform Alexander.”

“No use. It’s better not to tell.”

But Luger held Kidd back.

“The more users gather here, the more dangerous it becomes.”

“Do you think those who have tasted experience once will stop coming? There’s nothing we can do. If we tell them not to come now, a fight will probably break out among the users. If you want to become a public enemy like that idiot Leeha some time ago, go ahead.”

With Kidd’s defiant words, Luger’s eyebrows twitched.

“So we just continue playing along. Knowing full well what the enemy wants.”

“Haha, Kidd. The die is cast. Users will continue to gather, and the number of dead will keep increasing. We must find our own way within this chaos.”

Luger was trembling with excitement.

It wasn’t out of fear. It was the thrill of a predator with its prey in sight. Hearing Luger’s words and watching his actions, Kidd gave a wry smile.

“The word ‘we’ doesn’t sound strange coming from your mouth anymore.”

“Shut up! Tsk.”

Luger and Kidd, who used to aim their guns at each other whenever they met, were now close comrades.

After meeting the Three Musketeers of the old generation, they realized that they, the Three Musketeers of the new generation, also needed to join forces.

“Ha Leeha, that fool is always missing when needed. Dammit.”


“I agree with that sentiment.”

It was a regretful event for them that one of the three musketeers was missing in a situation where they needed to work together.

The results of the first monster wave were spread across the community on the same day. The events that followed didn’t deviate by a single bit from Luger and Kidd’s predictions.

Users who hadn’t even reached level 150 started gathering at the new continent’s city of JumaJMA, even if it meant exhausting all their money.

While Luger and Kidd were hurling insults at each other, another movement was taking place near Malavita’s twisted World Tree Forest.

“Hehe, finally the signal is coming in. I was worried about what to do if there was no response.”

“Hoho, I thought it was quite fun though? When you and I had one-on-one PvP practices-”

“Shush.”

Biyemi and Petyr, who had faced Leeha, hid in the bush, focusing their gaze on the distance.

At first glance, it was just a place where weeds grew densely, neither a forest nor a plain. Occasionally, there were moving creatures, but they were the animals of the new continent that were not recognized as monsters, and only a few went by.

Anyone might ignore it, but what the former number one assassin and the current one saw were different.

‘The barrier is coming down.’

‘Surprise——?’

Swiiiiiii…

Along with Petyr’s little whisper, the original view shook. It was a fact that could be easily guessed that they had placed a skill for deception over it.

The real image of the place, revealed after the fake image shook, was something that Biyemi and Petyr could thoroughly expect.

‘Hehehe, I knew this would happen. I always knew. I have finally found it.’

‘Hehehe, it’s you indeed, nguyen. Do you remember the old times? All the operations were your task-‘

‘Shh. Petyr, can you infiltrate? Nearby undead or those creatures – probably tamed monsters. If they catch us, it’s over. Go in first and find a route-‘

‘Oh, nguyen, nguyen, nguyen! Have I ever been caught? It’s a problem if you think I’m the same person as before.’


Petyr stood up silently.

However, the height of the Miyaou race with quadrupedal locomotion was enough to get concealed by the weeds.

‘I am the deputy leader of the Midnight Circus! Deputy leader? Hoho! Hoho-Leader!’

Swish-!

With those words, Petyr’s figure disappeared. Biyemi made a sound of annoyance and cautiously moved for ambush.

‘Hehe, sure enough. How we even got here. We absolutely must not get caught.’

They had been hiding here for days.

Finally, it was the moment when the barrier had loosened. They understood well that a head-on confrontation was impossible.

Their single target was infiltration. Before the barrier was restored again, they had to infiltrate the fortress that appeared in front of them.

‘I know about the NPCs that recently disappeared from the old continent. The users know too. If we’re dealing with Undead and Tamed Monsters… Faust and Yongyong. I don’t see their faces yet, but I can certainly tell whose village this is and how it was built.’

The lizard’s eyes sparkled.

Biyemi remembered the information that she had gathered over time, as she moved, crawling over the bottom of the weeds just like a real lizard would.

Those tasks that Biyemi could never have performed on her own.

However, if they joined forces with Petyr, and through the ‘Leader’ of the Midnight Circus, they could gather information as good as any guild’s.

‘I don’t know to what extent your strength has diminished over the last four years or how it has been distributed… but at least two things are clear. Your assination technique hasn’t caught my movement yet. If so, Chiyou…’

Biyemi felt confident.

He was confident he could accomplish the perfect revenge.

‘You have to die at my hands. I am a person who keeps promises. Hehe.’

A moment later, Biyemi, who observed Petyr moving, followed his path whenever he found a loophole in the guard. It wasn’t a skill to create a clone or hide in shadows. It’s not invisibility magic, nor using a teleport scroll. This was why they could become the greatest assassins. Their basic ‘physicality’ was optimized for assassination and infiltration.

Swoosh!

Despite the ironclad security maintained by Faust’s undead, tamer Yong Yong’s pet, and guild members led by Igor of Czar, an aimless guard always shows a gap. Petyr and Biyemi pierced through their alertness, which was like that of an insomniac monk, with ease. Petyr: Yo-ho, yo-ho! This is not a village level! Isn’t the fortress is extremely large? Huh? Look at this woman! She abandoned Minisu and established her own country!

Biyemi: This is not the time to marvel. Hehe, firstly, how the inside of the fortress is, the layout and placement of buildings- Petyr: Puh-hahaha, I know, I know! You’ve planned the operation, but I always execute it first, right? You don’t have to say it! I’m looking for Chiyou’s residence. You know, you’re such a know-it-all.

Petyr and Biyemi split to carry out their missions. The harmony they had consistently maintained since the days of Goon and Petyr shone even now. After about 40 minutes of collecting information while searching for Chiyou, Biyemi had to quickly hide, even stopping her breath.

Biyemi: Petyr, Petyr!

Petyr: Huh?

Biyemi: Do you see that?

Petyr: Puh-hahaha! What, what is that! It’s a complete surprise!

Petyr, who received Biyemi’s signal, was equally out of breath. But they weren’t the only ones. Igor, Faust, and Yong Yong, who were top-ranked and distinguished outsiders who appeared, were all riveted, looking at the unusual present invading their fortress. 『Where is the woman?』

“Haha! Guess we’re not even on the list?”

Snorted Igor with a down-to-earth voice as he stepped forward. Although he usually boasts a masterpiece body that is second to none compared to any monster, it had no meaning now. 『Get lost, you’re insignificant than a toenail.』

“I think I’m a bit bigger than a toenail. If I was there during the total attack, you wouldn’t have been safe either.”

“Igor. Stop it.”

The person who restrained the growling Igor was Faust. Despite being on the same side once, Faust was uncomfortable with Igor. The way he boldly steps forward in any situation, even though Yong Yong lauded it, looked like a mindless and inexhaustible advance to Faust.

“Was I wrong, dipshit? Is such a guy with only a big appearance scary-”

“Dipshit? If you call me that-”

『Dare you talk to me-』

“Ah, ah, stop! Enough〜 Hohohot, sorry. Our big guy was too rude. Igor? Can you not pick any fight when I’m away?”

The person who quelled the commotion in the central part of the fortress was Chiyou. Every one of the complaining males held their tongues as she appeared out of nowhere, swaying her hips as she walked.

『Have you prepared what I asked for?』

“Yes. Oh dear, you requested such a peculiar thing. How am I to find a jar trapping a soul on this uncivilized land? Well~ I went all the way back to our homeland and finally~ finally~ brought it back. That too, with the help of our homeland’s people-”

『Enough with the noise, just hand it over.』

As Chiyou kept prattling, the bass voice echoed once again. Even though Chiyou had only taken a couple of steps, her sky was already dark.

Nevertheless, she continued walking. It was tens of steps ago when a shadow loomed over her, but she still couldn’t stand in front of ‘him.’ Click, click, click. To capture even her walking posture, Biyemi and Petyr put all their focus.

Their objectives were simple and clear. To inflict a death and humiliation upon Chiyou, Biyemi contacted Petyr, and Petyr decided to join hands with Biyemi to break through the ‘wall’ he faced. But what’s going on right now? What the hell is happening?

“Here you go. Toon.”

Why on earth is Toon, the second-in-command of Bluebeard, in Chiyou’s secret fortress she built on the New Continent?

(To be continued…)
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From a human’s perspective, it was an object as large as a bathtub, difficult to move alone. However, compared to Toon, it was no larger than a mere eyeball.

Still, as if not wanting to miss even a speck of dust, Toon carefully examined the jar at his feet.

“Not bad, right? It’s much sturdier than what you guys used in the second Human-Demon War. It’s made from plundering the magic units from the Minis Kingdom.”

Chiyou opened her mouth, carefully watching Toon.

Toon only grunted in response, not engaging in Chiyou’s words.

『Is everything else the same?』

“Of course. If you can’t trust from such a sample…we can’t work~ together.”

Chiyou ended her sentence with a hint of playfulness, but Toon expressed no particular emotion. Instead, Yongyong, who was standing next to him, glared at Toon with jealous eyes.

“But why do you need these? Five jars that can hold ten thousand souls each. If they are all filled, that’s a total of fifty thousand, isn’t it? It won’t be easy to collect fifty thousand souls, but I’m more curious about what you will use the energy of these collected souls for.”

『No need for you to know.』

“Ah, come on. We even signed a contract. Give me a hint. Is it related to Le-”

『Do not utter the Count’s honor with your filthy mouth.』

Toon’s demeanor changed instantly.

Even Igor, who stood behind Chiyou, twitched his muscles dangerously, reaching almost for his sword.

“-I apologize for my rudeness.”

Chiyou’s gaze momentarily faltered, but she did not let her inward annoyance show.

She had often endured such treatments in Minis for the sake of information.

‘But I can be curious, right? You couldn’t consolidate the city with the last wave, so naturally, I have to think it has something to do with the Count, right?’

『It doesn’t require the Count’s power to overthrow your city of pests. I alone am enough.』


Toon said proudly, with Chiyou responding with a smile.

Claiming to overthrow the city, and having enough power to do so, yet not doing it?

There is a hidden meaning at odds with the surface-level interpretation.

“So, it seems that collecting souls has nothing to do with the Count, but it’s related to you, isn’t it?”

『…….』

Toon didn’t speak anymore. However, his silence was enough for Chiyou to understand. Why was Toon collecting souls?

Her information network had significantly weakened, but she had heard enough about the second total attack on the location where Toon and the “Arch Arcane Bullet’s Right Hand” had been.

‘They said they infused power into Toon to collect souls, right? That ‘purple beard’ gave Toon a mission. But if it’s not for himself or Toon?’

Chiyou’s mind raced.

‘I’ve heard this from the Magic Unit in Minis too. The souls of humans were also used as materials to strengthen the Demon King’s Army in the second Human-Demon War.’

By putting all of these together, the answer was clear.

“I wonder if the Count may wish to visit us in our fortress soon?”

『I do not know his deep intentions.』

“Ugh, but if he does, it would be great. Before ‘the others’ wake up.. I think we need to revise the contract conditions a bit more decisively. Wouldn’t it be better to clarify that we are on the same side, rather than having such an ambiguous relationship? Hehe.”

For a moment, Toon’s pupils widened.

A user of Chiyou’s caliber wouldn’t miss that reaction.

Toon snorted and flicked his finger. The jars for storing souls floated and circled around him.

『… I see why the Count is paying attention to you.』

“Oh my, that’s a compliment. I didn’t even know that I was being noticed. Please thank him for me.”

With a sly smile, Chiyou turned around.


Igor, Faust, and the others were looking at Toon with dumbfounded expressions.

‘I thought Faust would have at least gotten a grasp of it, but it seems it’s too difficult. Well, he doesn’t possess as much information as I do, after all…’

Even though Faust is sharp and smart, he couldn’t deduce much without a basis for his assumptions. Chiyou smiled faintly, confirming her guess was spot on by observing Toon’s reaction.

She relished in the flattery of being the only one who knew this level of information at this point.

However, her belief was a mere illusion.

“Hehehe, if the actual defeat of the Monster Wave was intended…how interesting! I wonder what other surprises are in store?”

Biyemi and Petyr were listening in on their entire conversation.

Especially Biyemi, who combined both the information Petyr had about ‘Midnight Circus’ and ‘Byulcho’.

If the background information is enough?

“Hehe, indeed…so that’s it. Eh? So what exactly happened, nguyen?”

Biyemi was a user capable of making an inference similar to Chiyou.

He understood the meaning of what Chiyou had said, and had fully grasped what Toon was planning.

“No, nothing. Hehe! Chiyou, you’ve risked your life today.

“Eh? Are we retreating? Not giving a surprise here and leaving!?

Biyemi briefly looked at the water balloon-like item he held in his hand.

If it was a surprise attack, it would certainly succeed and could lead Chiyou to death more than once.

However, a ten-day disconnection penalty and a level down would hardly be fatal for her.

“Let’s just save the location and go. I want to kill Chiyou, but revenge in ‘this way’ would be more fatal to her. And, another person who can help us comes to mind, now that we know what that jar is.”

Biyemi altered his plan slightly.

Knowing what cards the opponent had, it would be much more satisfying to deal a larger blow.


Petyr and Biyemi each entered Chiyou’s fortress location into their new crystal balls.

The location, surrounded by darkness and unnoticeable wherever they moved, were saved.

『Fire Against Fire』

Requirement: Obtain 『Fire Flower』 within 30 days and deliver it to Ifrit (Remaining days: 13)

“Ahh! Only 13 days left!” Leeha cried out in a screamy, not-screamy voice upon checking the quest details.

Despite trying to concentrate, time didn’t wait for him.

“It’s terrifying that the deadline is ticking every time I log out. I can’t even sleep.”

『Murmur…』

Listening to Leeha’s complaints, Jellypong’s arm poked out. The translucent arm gently stroked Leeha’s head then disappeared with a zap!

‘Fortunately, the only time limit quest is this one…but, alas.’

However, it was unfortunate. There was another quest where the hourglass would start ticking from the moment the Fire Flower was acquired.

After briefly recalling Onyx, Leeha shook his head and whispered to Blaugrunn.

Leeha: Is everything going well?

Blaugrunn: For now… yes, I think so. And you, Leeha?

Leeha: I’m at the foot of the volcano now. The Fire Flower should be around here.

Blaugrunn: Hmm. Be careful since Onyx’s tracking will start as soon as you pick the Fire Flower.

Leeha: Who knows if it’s there or not. Anyway, okay! Keep up the good work.

Blaugrunn, too, was busy with his schedule.

Leeha wanted to call him, but he was busy dealing with a task Leeha had asked him to do.

“So, only I can go in here alone—no, with Jellypong.”

『Myong, myong!』

“Yes, seem like you’re quite enthusiastic.”A cavernous passage that led to the interior of the volcano was abruptly filled with heat from its mouth. Leeha clenched his eyes shut before stepping into the entrance of the cave. After a few steps, as the outer light began to fade, Leeha saw an alert welcoming him. 『You are affected by ‘Breathing Difficulty’.』

『Your stamina does not recover.』

『The natural recovery rate of HP and MP has decreased by 50%.』

“Damn it… The lava in this new continent is something else. I’ve never seen anything like this on the old continent.”

『Myong, myong.』

The only existing volcano on the old continent was virtually the main chamber for the red dragons.

Maybe because there were no dragons to magic away the toxic gases, the unaltered volcano was an area too difficult for humans to approach.

‘Does this make it virtually a hidden dungeon?’

Leeha continued to tread with regulated breaths.

The entrance at the foot of the mountain featured slopes of alternating ascents and descents.

Despite only walking for about thirty minutes, the path was so complex that Leeha couldn’t determine whether he was on the mountainside or underground.

The path was dangerously narrow with a cliff underneath, making each step treacherous.

Thankfully, the interior was not pitch-black.

Hooooooo…… HAAAAAAA……!

“Wow, that’s surprising.”

Sometimes, spurts of lava would illuminate the cave. Of course, with the light came a surplus of heat and toxic gases.

“I wonder if there aren’t any monsters because of the environment…” Leeha reassured himself, reconfirming the feel of his musket-pistol in his hands.

While there was some fun in using the old-fashioned gunpowder and lead bullets to forcefully reload, it was still insufficient to use perfectly in actual combat.

‘I haven’t been using the musket much nowadays. I am called a musketeer after all.’

Would it be because Jellypong had been too domesticated with modern firearms like Black Bass? Even though Agility was overwhelmingly high, the loading speed was not much different from before.

『Myong!』

“Huh?”

『Myong… myong. Myong, myong, myong.』

Jellypong had cautiously advanced a little further when he abruptly spoke to Leeha.

At the sound of him, Leeha’s eyes widened in surprise.

“Really?”

『Myong! Myong- myong, myong, myong!』

As Leeha answered, Jellypong’s voice became even faster and lower. Assuming from the cautious attitude that didn’t want anyone to overhear, Leeha took a brief look around. And then he laughed.

“Ha-ha, sorry. I didn’t understand a single word.”

『… Myong?』

“I just wanted to act serious for a moment”

『Myong?!』

Swwwwwwoosh!

From Leeha’s chest, two of Jellypong’s long arms sprung out.

The bulging eyes of the beast. Jellypong stared at Leeha with a stunned look.

“Hey, you don’t need to be that surprised. It’s stranger that I can communicate with you. Even Noeanen and Celestinee, who were top-ranking spirits, couldn’t understand you. How could I?”

『. Myong …』

Jellypong sighed.

And then, once again, his two arms stretched out long. Soon, the two arms formed into a huge arrow, pointing in a specific direction.

“Huh?”

Even Leeha could guess what this meant – keep an eye out over there.

Leeha scrutinized the area pointed out by Jellypong. Up to now, the cave ceiling had not been too high. However, in a spot about 30m away from where Leeha was standing, it formed a sort of underground plaza.

Jellypong was pointing at a dark ceiling, so high that the light of the flowing lava couldn’t quite reach it.

‘Terrain has started to change. Does that mean there’s something over there?’

Leeha adopted a crouching stance.

Taking cautious steps, as soon as Jellypong’s finger retreated, he navigated a cliff below where the lava flowed and the path was very narrow.

Suddenly, the open plaza. If he is worried about getting ambushed, it would be better to pull the monster to where he is standing rather than confronting it directly. If forced to confront, they wouldn’t be able to dodge his musket in this straight path.

‘If they’re found, they’ll shoot first. That’s the plan.’ Only after considering Jellypong’s warning, and imagining the best combat position, did Leeha’s movements speed up.

One step, two steps… When he had entered the crossover connecting the narrow path to the plaza, Leeha finally made eye contact with the alert that Jellypong had warned about.

The ones being illuminated by the glow of the lava, their eyes suddenly increased in number.

“Ahh… that’s why it was pointing at the ceiling.”

Still wondering why it had pointed at the ceiling and not at a monster.

“Ssssssssst…

“Sssssssttttttttt-”

“Sssst, sssstttttt——” Flap-flap-flap-flap!

“Didn’t you say they were bats in the first place? YAAAAHH!”

Numerous giant bats hanging off the ceiling suddenly began to fly. Witnessing a couple of hundred glowing eyes flying towards him, Leeha shouted aloud.

『Multishots』!”

BOOOOOOM!!

(To Be Continued…)
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“Thud!”

A single bat that had been flying towards him plummeted to the ground. Just from the dull thud it made upon crashing, one could estimate its monstrous size. However, Leeha was far from satisfied.

A mere one bat had fallen.

Naturally, it was not enough.

“Why- why only one- ah, ah!”

Leeha couldn’t contain his shock at the sight of his musket-pistol, from which a thick white smoke was billowing.

The reason Multi-Warhead Shot didn’t function was clear.

He had no Multi-Warhead Shot skill at present.

It was merely an ‘optional skill’ attached to Black Bass. Without Black Bass, he couldn’t use this skill with any other rifle.

“Screeeeeee—!”

“Damn it— what is going on-!”

Caught off guard by a single shot from the musket hummingbird pistol, the bats swooped down aggressively. Instantly, Leeha fired a grapeshot from his needle gun pistol. Accompanied by reverberations within the cave, the grapeshot formed a barrage.

“Thud!”

“Screech!”

“Just two of them?!”

The grapeshot from the needle gun pistol had only managed to kill two bats. Some bats had merely grazed by a second or third shot and were now circling erratically but they were far from dead.

If they were ordinary, small bats, certainly more than a dozen would have perished. However, what Leeha was dealing with were not ordinary bats.

“Freaking hell– the New Continent is known for its scale! But if the bats are bigger than a retriever–”

A barrage of fireballs spewed from the mouths of bats the size of large dogs with wings.


There were over 50 bats, illuminating the entire cave with the 50 fireballs fired from their mouths.

“They’re even breathing fire– this bloody New Continent playing fire games from the cradle. Force Barrier!”

Astounded, Leeha managed to release a jade barrier.

But this wasn’t the Old Continent. Given the monster level distribution in the New Continent, the Force Barrier couldn’t possibly handle fifty incoming fireballs.

‘Besides, they move too fast. With my skills…hunting with two pistols is… challenging…’

He needed to make a decision.

What would be the optimal strategy to neutralize the incoming fireballs while exterminating the bats?

“Boom! Boom, boom!”

“Jellypong?!”

As if understanding his dilemma, an arm of Jellypong emerged from his chest.

When their eyes met, it was the start of show time.

“Alright, once the Force Barrier breaks—”

Clang, thud! Clang, thud!

The Force Barrier shook violently before giving way, sapped of strength after intercepting around twenty fireballs.

“Platinum Shield, let’s go, Jellypong! Bayonet Assault!”

This was the moment Leeha’s been waiting for.

Jellypong, agile enough to rappel through complicated trees like a redwood, let alone maneuver through Bahamut’s protective magic, faced no peril from being hit!

“Screech!”

“Whooooosh!”

Jellypong’s arms moved like wires.


They hooked into the ceiling, quickly gained velocity, and approached the target monster.

“Cut!”

Before bats could even dodge, the elongated gun sword from the musket-pistol and Jellypong’s other arm cut a bat in half.

“Screeeeeeech-!”

“Oh, did you think you could dodge the gun sword if you came from the left? But—”

Leeha swung his left arm towards the bat that was approaching.

In his left hand was the upside-down needle gun pistol. The hilt, which now functioned as a blunt weapon, was ready to make an impact.

“You have any idea how many rabbits I’ve killed with a mere club?”

The bat didn’t even get the chance to scream before it dropped to the ground.

In a matter of moments, Leeha had killed five giant bats. Not daring to approach Leeha, the bats must have sensed their impending doom.

“Hehehe, not coming? You will die whether you do or not.”

Hanging from the ceiling, Leeha was swinging by Jellypong’s arms with a smirk on his face.

Flexing his biceps and smirking, he looked as formidable as a demon to the bats.

“I’ll show you who the madman of Candle Castle is. Zellarwiiiind!”

“Myong, myong!”

“Squeak, squeak!”

“Squeak, squeak, squeak!”

The bats started to scatter in all directions. But none could move faster than Jellypong.

“Ha-chow!”

“Ha-rat, chachacha-!”


“Ha-it, ha-it, haiya!”

Moving all around with strange battle cries.

Leeha’s arms, moving-nimbly and smoothly, swung his bladed weapon, hit hard with the butt of his gun, struck with Jellypong’s arm, and even climbed on the bats, biting their necks.

『Myong, myong…』

If Blaugrunn had been there, it would have been an embarrassment to watch, but it was enough to subdue the bats.

『You have leveled up.』

“Phew! Man, this feels great for stress relief! Maybe I should start a business like this?”

Leeha, looking at the bodies of over fifty bats scattered on the ground, wiped his sweat and burst into a hollow laugh.

No Black Bass? Blaugrunn can’t help? Can’t summon Koma?

“Not even a mage with power. Just beaten like this.”

Even so, it seemed ridiculous for Leeha to be able to defeat the monsters of the New Continent in such a brutish manner.

“Alright, alright, even after leveling up, let’s see what our bat friends gave us-”

Squeak, squeak…

From behind Leeha, who was flexing his shoulders and loosening his body, came a strange sound. It was the ominous sound of something very hot falling to the ground.

『Myong, myong-』

“… Can’t be.”

Leeha slowly turned around.

The narrow path with enormous caves branching out had certainly been empty just a moment ago. He knew this better than anyone because he had pass through it himself.

But now, there was another creature in that place.

“Squeak. Squeak. An intruder.”

“Squeak, all the fuel bats are dead.”

“… Lava lizards… Are there many of you?”

There was no need to ask. Those creatures, crawling up the wall of the cliff where the lava flowed and stepping onto the ground, were dripping lava from their skins.

One, two, three… The number of lizards crawling up the narrow path and setting foot in the underground cave exceeded ten.

‘Isn’t the lava flowing, but the skin itself made of lava.’

The lava itself, like trapped water, was forming their shapes.

Leeha had never seen it before, but he thought that the fire spirits, salamanders, might have felt the same.

“I am totally… Totally! I have no intention of fighting. I came here to meet the lava lizards, my name is human Leeha.”

Leeha quickly raised his arms, watching them narrowly, and assumed a surrendering posture. He quickly finished introducing himself, but the lava lizards did not let down their guard.

After hearing Leeha’s words, their eyes briefly turned to the bat bodies that had fallen on the ground.

You say you don’t want to fight, then why did you kill these? Leeha quickly answered their questioning gaze.

“This- these guys- the bats attacked me first so I had to react and I really-”

“Squeak! Squeak!”

At one lizard’s shout, all of them moved simultaneously.

Screech!

When the lizards surrounding Leeha shook their tails, chunks of lava were shot out and flew.

Even compared to the fireballs the bats spat, the force of this was so horrible that it could be called a mere gesture.

『Myong-』

‘Don’t come out, Jellypong!’

Jellypong stretched out his arm and tried to perform a ‘three-dimensional maneuver’, but Leeha stopped him. Overpowering with flashy moves would be good, but then they might end up having to fight.

Without Black Bass, overpowering them completely by force would be difficult.

If that’s the case, this way might be better.”Haaaah- It’s so hot!”

Pow, pow, pow, pow-!

“Gah!”

Leeha staggered backwards as the multiple thuds hit him. The physical impact of the flying chunks of lava was not trivial.

Even as he tried to stand firm, the chunks of lava sticking to his upper and lower body made it excruciating as they burned his flesh.

The most unbearable part was the sizzling sound that seemed to burn through the armor, which was enough to make Leeha wince.

“Ha ha ha, hot, hot, hot! Water, water! Potion, potion!”

Every time Leeha flung his arms and legs, lumps of lava from ‘Lonely Volcano’, with its mucky texture, dropped to the ground, plop, plop.

The lava lizards, watching Leeha frenziedly pulling out a potion to pour over the steaming wound, couldn’t help but feel surprised.

“.. Sking?”

“Human, sking, not dead.”

They were shocked how Leeha could survive, as the lava they fear even touching burned him directly.

The guards of the lizards became more alert. Leeha forced a grin at their astonishment.

“See? Phew, I have no intention to fight with you guys.”

Even with a high pain tolerance level, he mentions how unbearable the pain is. Barely swallowing those words, Leeha opened his character window.

These were the reasons why Leeha confidently dared to confront Jellypong without a ‘Platinum Shield’. 『’Bailephus’ Blessing’』

Explanation : The metal dragon race? They ease their pain by bonding with those they recognize as their own. The mana of the gold dragon will always be wrapped around you.

Effects: Immediate communication with the Meta Dragon that cast the magical sphere.

Fire Resistance +15%

Intimacy +50% with all metal dragons

Intimacy -80% with all chromatic dragons

『’Protection of the Water Spirit’』

Explanation : The Water Spirit never forgets the one who resurrected it.

Effects : Damage taken from water attribute attacks decreased by 50%

30% of damage from water attribute attacks heals health

Damage taken from fire attribute attacks decreased by 40%

Leeha did not trivially step into the lava. Those lava lizards flung lava chunks at Leeha with a swing of their tails, an unmistakable act of ‘aggression’. Feeling the heat was inevitable, but believing that the damage can be borne due to that heat, Leeha was confident.

Because he had these buffs.

“I didn’t come here to fight with you. I’m sorry about killing these bats, but I’ll make it up to you. Will you escort me to where your tribal deity resides? Let me reiterate, my name is Leeha. I’m very close to ‘Koba’ of the volcano beneath the jungle.”

Leeha named his mission and repeated his name.

His name was not welcomed at bonobo paleo Tribe either. He was sure that universal reputation was meant to be used at times like this.

“… So, Leeha.”

“Koba, bonobo, Koba.”

“I recollect, he would say something about the bonobo guys.”

The lava lizards murmured and exchanged opinions.

Leeha hadn’t completely loosened up, but he could tell that things were going well.

‘The priority is to clarify that I have no intention to attack.’

There was no reason why the strategy used against the red goat Paleios back when he had no reputation whatsoever wouldn’t work here.

“Let’s go, we’ll take you to our guardian deity.”

“Let’s go. Let’s go.”

“Hold on, Grab the-”

Swoosh-! Swoosh-!

As soon as he finished speaking, the lava lizards jumped into the abyss. The splashing, hissing sounds of their landing came after that.

“Huh?”

Only then did Leeha remember.

That’s how the lava lizards got here, from the lava-filled abyss. How was he going to go back?

Obviously, through the lava.

Leeha ran hurriedly and sat down at the narrow path, looking downwards.

“Wait, wait! Take me with you! How do I get there?”

But the lava lizards had already disappeared into the lava.

While he was indecisive, he heard a Crunch-! The narrow path where he was perched crumbled. Did the lava from the lizards’ bodies weaken the ground’s stability? Leeha, having already lost his balance, did not have the leisure to ponder over that.

“Whoa, haaaaah-!”

Kicking out his arms and legs, he fell off the edge of the abyss. He managed to rummage through his bag and take out a teleportation scroll, but the plunge into the lava is faster.

“Hellllp-!”

Splash——-!

Leeha’s body disappeared into the lava completely.

(To be continued…)
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“Grrrrr-”

Leeha clenched his eyes shut and quickly closed his mouth.

Opening his eyes in seawater was painful enough, but in a stream of lava? Even if it’s just a game, no one would want to endure the torment of their eyeballs burning in lava.

Ding, ding-!

Despite the confusion, the system alert sounded.

Thankfully, in Middle Earth, one could see even with their eyes closed.

‘Dammit, someone died in the lava, of all the unfortunate-‘

『You have resisted the abnormal status ‘Extreme Heat’.』

『You have resisted the abnormal status ‘Burn Injury’.』

『You have resisted the abnormal status ‘Real Name’.』

『You have resisted the abnormal status ‘Fear’.』

‘- Going to… Huh?’

Immersed in the thick lava, Leeha suddenly felt a strange sensation. Not only had he resisted the abnormal status, but he hadn’t felt any particular sensations since falling into the lava.

‘It… it’s not hot?’

He wondered if he just hadn’t.felt the heat because he had just fallen in. But that wasn’t it. Time had passed as normal, even the effects related to abnormal status had been applied. However, the fact that it still wasn’t hot struck Leeha as peculiar.

‘What’s going on?’

Leeha slowly opened his eyes.

A scarlet world, a stark contrast to the blue world seen from under the sea, filled Leeha’s view.

The only exception in this scarlet world was the blue aura enveloping his body.


“Jellypong!”

『Myong, myong-』

“Damn, this feature existed too?”

The water spirit, created from the essence of the Sea God, was wrapped tightly around Leeha’s body. When attacked, it surrounded Leeha’s body, not only absorbing the damage but also providing heat resistance?

『Myong, myong!』

Jellypong’s arm sprouted out and gave a playful wink. Leeha was suddenly filled with an overwhelming emotion.

“Jellypong… Thank-”

『Myong myong myong!』

“-woawwwww?!”

Before his admiration could fully register, Jellypong’s arm began to rotate like a propeller behind Leeha. In an area where the 『Mermaid Transformation』 couldn’t be used, he had a feature that could mimic its effects.

Shooo….

Leeha swam through the lava as if he was in a tiny submarine.

The Lava Lizards, who had been waiting for Leeha, began to sway their tails and paddle through the lava again.

‘Middle Earth really gives you all sorts of experiences. This feels even more miraculous than when I was going to the Dragon Palace.’

Is this what it feels like to move through a marsh?

The Lava Lizards swam a good distance through the bubbling lava before they began to rise to the surface again.

‘It’s about a 30-minute journey from that place. Can’t quite figure out the direction though.’

Lava is a term specifically referring to magma that has fully erupted and is flowing.

But since he was completely submerged in lava and unable to see the outside,

Leeha had no way of knowing whether he was in the inner parts of the volcano where the magma was, or if he had just followed the flow of the lava.


In essence, this place was no different from the secret area of the “Lonely Volcano”.

When Leeha finally set foot in the chamber inside the volcano, a place that couldn’t be entered by any player and even the paleos of the New Continent, ta-dah-! Ta-dah-! An unexpected achievement fanfare played.

『Achievement: Guardian of the Lonely Volcano(S-)』

Congratulations! You have successfully entered the interior of Erika’s only volcano, the “Lonely Volcano”. Many creatures will be curious about this habitat, previously undiscovered. The abilities of the Lava Lizards to manage and control the flow of magma inside the earth were once thought to only exist in legends.

Reward: Strength +7, dexterity +7, intelligence +7, reputation Across the Continent of Erika +20

You are the first to register for the 『Guardian of the Lonely Volcano』 achievement. The first three registrants will enter the Hall of Fame with an additional 200% of the original effect. Effect: Strength +14, dexterity +14, intelligence +14, reputation Across the Continent of Erika +40

‘So this is where the Lava Lizards dwell… it has been undiscovered up till now.’

The existence of the Lava Lizards was known to the bonobo of the Lava Jungle. However, it meant that even they had never reached the lizard’s habitat.

In other words, I became the first and unique discoverer of the new continent, including NPC.

‘Ha, fernand would be surprised. And to get here-‘

『Achievement: Lava? Isn’t That a Hot Spring? (A+)』

Congratulations! You have managed to survive in the lava for more than 30 minutes. You have not only resistance against fire but also a patience that others can hardly imagine! So, where would you like your next onsen trip to be? You will need a small gift from Middle Earth if you are daring face hell’s inferno.

Reward: Fire Resistance +10%

You are the second to register for the 『Lava? Isn’t That a Hot Spring?』 achievement.

The first three registrations will enter the Hall of Fame with an additional 200% of the original effect. Effect: Fire Resistance +20%

‘-You need such an achievement. It’s not a place anyone can reach- huh? What’s this?’

He couldn’t help but grin at the realization that he alone held an achievement that even Fernand couldn’t match. However, seeing the next achievement made him stumble a bit.

Your name is the second listed in the Hall of Fame of achievements, which demand a 30-minute immersion in lava.

‘I can’t believe it… Who’s the nutcase? I barely survived thanks to Jellypong, but… Jellypong had not merely endured. It had withstood by consuming all of its health. Not long ago, Leeha saw that Jellypong’s health had almost drained.

In other words, Jellypong barely withstood about 30 minutes by absorbing the damage that I was to receive. If the habitat of the Lava Lizards was further away, my life would not have been guaranteed.


‘Since I was the first to discover this place, it means someone took a 30-minute bath in the lava on the old continent.’

I shook my head after a brief thought about who could have been crazy enough to do that. It’s not like I didn’t know there were all kinds of people in Middle Earth.

“Skink, follow me.”

“Ah, okay.”

The space is expansive, even where we climbed up from the lava. The scorching heat was still felt as Jellypong could no longer cover me.

Thanks to the recent achievement, however, I didn’t have a problem holding up.

“There’s no constructed building in the interior of the volcano…

Wide spaces throughout have holes, each likely a home for individual Lava Lizards.

‘Well, it would be a task to bring construction materials to a place like this.’

If the only pathway is through the lava, as I followed the Lava Lizards onto the pathway, it’s unlikely anyone can bring anything here.

“Skink, report to the Guardian Deity. Tell him/her that we’ve brought the one who killed the Fuel Bat.”

“The one who killed the Fuel Bat? Skink?”

One of the Lava lizard hurriedly ran off after looking at us. I could quickly guess what the largest hole in the room meant.

‘The Guardian Deity probably inhabits there.’ Lava Lizards all around peeped out their heads from the holes to observe me. It was surprising for me that there were no humanoid entities in this place too.

‘Perhaps, it would be tough to live in a place like this in a humanoid form.’

Even I, someone with 45% fire resistance, could feel the heat quite a bit. How could a normal human survive here?

Unlike the paleo monkeys, due to different reasons, the Lava lizard would always need to stay transformed.

I followed the Lava Lizards into a huge hole. The brightness inside, which was presumed to be a village, was much brighter than the outside.

“Skink, Guardian Deity I’ve returned.”

Skink! All surrounding Lava Lizards, who had surrounded me, kneeled. I then realized why they needed such a massive hole. It wasn’t to showcase the majesty of the Guardian, the clan’s sacred entity. Instead, it was simply because a place was needed for the ‘enormous lizard’ to sit.

“First, let me greet you. My name is Ha Leeha..”

Leeha bowed his head toward the massive face in front of him.

“……You killed all the fuel bats? And you said you would repay it.”

There was no cordial self-introduction.

The guardian deity of the Lava Lizards and a monstrous lizard flicked its tongue.

Considering the size of its tongue was close to Leeha’s entire body, it was more like dealing with an enormous reptile, even larger than an ancient-grade dragon.

“Yes. That’s correct. If there’s something I can help with-”

“Even if you burned yourself up, it would be insufficient to generate thermal energy.”

“-Pardon?”

“We’ve been using the waste of the bats you killed as fuel so far. Do you know what that means?”

“Of…course.”

Leeha nodded, not quite understanding but going along.

He knew that in cold regions, dried cow dung is used as firewood. But bat droppings?

Though the bats were as vast as large dogs, would their waste be enough to be used as fuel?

Moreover, with magma everywhere,

Why would creatures with even their skin made of magma need fire?

Leeha had his questions but kept them to himself.

Nevertheless, the giant lizard opened its mouth as if it knew what Leeha was thinking just by looking at his expression.

“You probably don’t know…… If you do not continuously heat the magma, allowing it to circulate within the Earth, terrible things happen. Magma would erupt not just from volcanoes but everywhere. If all the magma inside erupts, the continent might sink. Are you ignoring the potential destruction of this land?”

The lizard’s vertical pupils glared at Leeha.

“Bat… dung is used to heat the magma? I thought magma is heated merely by the internal pressure and temperature of the planet-”

“Don’t spout nonsense. We are the ones managing all the magma beneath the surface. To keep it consistently heated, their droppings were necessary. In other words, a lump of dung from a single fuel bat is far more valuable than your most precious treasure, even more so than your insignificant life.”

The lizard’s head moved closer to Leeha.

Leeha was momentarily stunned by the lizard’s words, which were different from what he knew, but after all, this is Middle Earth. If the game setting is as such, so be it. Leeha remembered why he was here. Perhaps this was a good thing. If he knew what they wanted,

he would have a significant advantage when building familiarity.

‘Knowing about magma so much, it’s a foregone conclusion that a《Fire Flower》can be found here…… Now, shall I try to butter them up a bit? 《Bargaining》”

All that remained was for Leeha to showcase his skills at manipulating the negotiations.

“I understand. Your efforts to maintain not only this area but also the entire world as a balanced environment. I risked coming here to confirm that.”

Leeha smiled with a hundred percent affinity, looking at the giant lizard. However, he has assumed too easily this time.

The lizard’s eyes bulged out.

“Don’t be ridiculous. I have no interest in relying on someone who already killed our fuel bats.”

“Eh? What?”

“Kill him.”

Common quest affinity penalties could be compensated for by Leeha’s high reputation on the New Continent.

But now was a different story!

It was Leeha himself who had slaughtered their ‘property’ and ‘treasure’, the fuel bats! Even if Leeha were confident and asked for a favor, they wouldn’t agree.

“Hold on, that’s not what I-” All the Lava Lizards stood, hearing the lizard’s words.

Despite having no particular weapons, their entire bodies, made of magma, were weapons in themselves.

‘I don’t even have the stamina from my previous life! If it’s now, I’m really gonna be beaten!’

Leeha stepped back from the charging Lizards,

but only met the gaping mouth of the massive lizard behind him.

‘Damn it，damn it，was 《Bargaining》 only possible if the other party was willing to listen in the first place.’

Just like with the Onyx, Leeha had to provoke their interest.

Without such a keyword, no matter how eloquent, it was futile. In a situation like this where they have absolutely no interest in Leeha, there’s no opportunity for bargaining.

“Skink，Skink-”

“Resistance only brings more suffering, skink.”

There’s no way to counter them now. If he showed even a hint of aggression, he might never be able to get the 《Fire Flower》.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha decided to retreat for now.

‘I should save the location before I come back again. Arcane Sphere-‘

As he was digging through his bag, something caught his hand. An item that felt so strange due to its long absence, however, the potency of this item was firmly imprinted in Leeha’s memory. Turning his back to the incoming lava lizards, Leeha stared at the giant lizard.

“Please, at least tell me your name! Before I die, I’d like to hear the esteemed name of our guardian deity.”

“What would you do knowing my name-”

“Arghh!”

In the moment as the giant lizard was about to open its mouth, Leeha threw something he had in his hand.

Something catchable with a fist slipped into the lizard’s maw.

It was obvious that the eyes of the lava lizards popped out.

“Skink! Skink! This brat attacked our guardian deity!”

“Kill him! Kill! Skink!”

The lava from the lava lizards shone brighter. The rapidly rising temperature could be felt even by Leeha.

Would he have to accept their ’embrace of death’ as it is?

‘Please, please, pleeeease!’

Leeha mumbled inwardly, stumbling backwards.

Suddenly, the heat from the giant lizard looming behind him was more oppressive than the impending lava lizards.

“Wa-wait! Give me some time-”

“Dare to make such a remark after attacking our guardian deity, skink!”

Swoosh-!


Just as a lava lizard leaped towards Leeha, the alert he had anxiously been waiting for finally flashed.

‘Your Rare Seed of the Corrupted World Tree has been activated.’

‘Target: Monstrous Skink’

‘The target’s level is high. The duration of the effect has been reduced.’

‘Duration: 25 seconds’

“Skink- Sir Skink! Please ask them to stop!”

“All… stop.”

Skink!

The monstrous Skink from the lava lizards heard Leeha’s words.

At a single word of command to halt, the leaping lava lizard also forcibly twisted its body to land in an unstable posture. The command of Skink, the guardian deity of their tribe, was that absolute.

Leeha swiftly spun around with wide eyes.

At the last moment, what he had thrown into Skink’s mouth was the Corrupted World Tree’s Seed!

The very same seed he had once obtained with Jin Gonggong in the old mainland.

‘Rare Seed of the Corrupted World Tree’ Effect: Able to control a monster for 6 hours after consumption.

Description: The spores released by the Corrupted World Tree onto all continents consume nutrients and put down deep roots. The plant that grows from the spore uses hypnotic powder to control surrounding creatures and move at its own will. It is said that the hypnotic powder is obtained from ground seeds.

‘An item with a 6-hour effect only lasts for 25 seconds?!’

He was rather fortunate that it lasted for even 25 seconds. It was preposterous to even conceive the idea of controlling a monster with a rare item from the start.

Leeha harbored a momentary resentment, but he had to quickly shake off such thoughts. Within merely 25 seconds, he had to understand everything and reverse the situation.

“Sir Skink! Do you have ‘Fire Flowers’ here?”

“Yes… We do.”


“How many, how many?”

“… I need to check the cultivation field.”

Cultivation field?! Then, it was not likely to be just one or two. Leeha immediately spoke up.

“Could you spare me just a few of those?”

“When the lava… cools… Fire Flowers… disappear.”

“What?”

“There’ll be… no fuel…”

“So you will promise me then! Once the lava is heated again, you will grant me the fire flowers!”

The gaze of Skink was changing every moment. The effects of the seed made themselves vividly clear. There was a dumb and stupefied expression when it had yet to take root, yet when a sudden sharpness would cut through the eyes, it was enough to make Leeha’s heart sink.

“Please! Hurry and respond, there is no time, no time!”

Clutching his anxious heart, Leeha alternately looked at the Lava lizard and Skink. The moment Skink’s eyes seemed to flip, about to speak, a hologram window finally popped up in front of Leeha.

There wasn’t even time to leisurely read the quest request window. The remaining time was 3 seconds, 2 seconds – “Accept! Accept!”

Leeha first hit the accept button in haste.

And then, a full 25 seconds passed by.

Complete light returned to the vertically slit eyes of the Skink. He looked at Leeha, who stood idly in front of him, with a furrowed brow.

“Erm, why didn’t this fellow die already? What were you guys doing?”

“Sk…Skink? Says the guardian god……”

“I- Ugh?!”

The giant lizard furrowed his brows.

Suddenly, with a headache, certain information was input into his brain.


“Er, so…you are saying if I rekindle the fire of lava until it flows perfectly, you’ll give me a fire flower?”

“Why would I make such a promise-? Why?”

Skink cocked his head.

His closeness level with Leeha was still negative due to the killing of the Fuel Bats, but he did retain the memory of making a certain promise with her.

At least, he could not deny a quest content that had been accepted by the user.

“I shall do my best, skink.”

Leeha gave a deep bow before Skink.

“Wait a minute! Why-”

A polite greeting was, of course, to hide a smile.

Bewildered Skink and even more confused Lava Lizards stared at Leeha with a puzzled look.

“Living here for a lifetime?”

“That’s right. That’s our mission. Managing the magma with Skink is our job.”

“Have you never been outside the volcano?”

“Sometimes there are curious ones who go to the place you have gone, but most of them return immediately. You are the first one to follow us swimming through the lava.”

“Hm.”

Given that the block itself has to pass through the lava river, there must be no such thing as exchange of goods. Leeha seemed to understand why this place was called the ‘Lonely Volcano.’

“Don’t you want to go outside? There are birds flying, trees, and blooming flowers-”

“Those things are not important.”

“What?”

“All those things are going to be consumed by lava anyway.”

“…Of course, that is true-”

“Then, there’s nothing more beautiful than lava.”

At the same time, he also seemed to understand why it had to an ‘Lonely Volcano.’

As long as their nature itself was set such, there was no need to touch their hearts with some unnecessary remarks.

‘So, being strong is the best? Some friends like Luger… would get along with them, I guess.’

User names like Igor and others briefly passed Leeha’s mind. Those who only care about being powerful would surely get along well with the Lava Lizards.

“Ah! By what name should I call you?”

“I’m number 107. You can call the ones behind me number 108, number 109, 110. We don’t have names.”

Once the Lava Lizards, including number 107, completely closed their mouths, Leeha quietly followed behind them.

‘Well, they still hold grudges. Still, once I clear this, they will be okay. Hehe.’

『Super-High-Temperature Furnace』

Instructions: “Can you handle all the magma that circulates under the ground? Fortunately, you have spared a few Fuel Bats that still live but their excrement is not enough. They become adults in a month, but you have to heat up the magma right after 3 days. So, you have to find the way. The way to make the magma white-hot. If you can solve that, I will give you as many Fire Flowers as you want.”

Skink, who is responsible for the ground’s magma, only worries about this. Let’s find a way to heat the 『Magma Origin』 of the Lava lizard Block.

Content: Reach the 『Magma Origin’s』 target temperature (0%)

Reward: 2 Fire Flowers, achievement – The One Who Manages Lava

Failure Conditions: Failure to heat the 『Magma Origin』 within 3 days

Upon Failure: 『Lonely Volcano』 Major Eruption, earthquake and Magma Ejection at 10 Random Points within New Continent Erika, common Reputation in New Continent -2,000, -50% Affinity with all paleos in the New Continent

What he thought was a simple quest, both the failure penalty and rewards turned out to be much larger than Leeha had initially expected.

As her current reputation across the New Continent was barely reaching around 400, a single failure could bring her down to -1,600.

‘And eruption of a volcano or random earthquakes… Well, rumors would spread that I caused those, and that could bring me notoriety.’

Failure was not an option.

Yet Leeha was confident in her own way.

The reward of Fire Flowers was as many as two, plus there was an unknown buff.

‘More than anything, I just have to raise the temperature to the target. They were burning bat excrement as logs? Then what about me?’

This was just the type of quest Leeha wanted. All he needed was money!

He could rush to the Gaza City, buy all the items at the auction house that could be used as logs, throw everything inside and solve it quickly.

“Phew.”

“How foolish.”

“Hm, no, that’s not correct.”

After walking through what seemed to be the jointly owned cavern of the Lava Lizards for a while, something special began to appear before Leeha’s eyes.

From a hole far larger than the dwelling place of the skink, a soft red glow was being emitted.

“This place is…”

“It’s the Magma Origin. It’s our duty to throw fuel in here to heat up the magma.”

There was a hidden message in his words, implying that this task had been hindered due to Leeha. This was evident with Lava Lizards number 107 to 110 glaring at Leeha with hostile faces.

‘So vast. Of course, all the key origins or sources of things have to be structured like this.’

Leeha sneaked up to the edge of the circular hole and peered inside. You could see lava flowing far down at the bottom.

The architecture, size, and shape felt strangely familiar to Leeha. It was similar to the ‘settling tanks’ near the dragon palace.

“So, you just need to dump the fuel here carelessly?”

“Do you know how much energy a single piece of poop from the Fuel Bat possesses?”

“I don’t know that… but I can easily acquire as much coal as needed.”

Coal is an item that mid-to-low-level users in Middle Earth often collect through hard labor for money. If you are determined, you can collect thousands of pieces in no time at the auction house.

However, the Lava lizard just snorted and didn’t give any further reply.

“Coal? The energy released when the Fuel Bat’s poop reacts with the magma is equivalent to more than ten tons of coal.”

“What?”

“If you collect around seventy pieces of poop from the fifty Fuel Bats that you killed, you would need to gather over 700 tons of coal. Do you think you can manage that?”

“700 tons?! You’re saying we need 700 tons of coal?”

Is that why the Lava Lizards were so desperate for the Fuel Bat? Does a single lump of poop produced inside the bat’s body possess the energy equivalence to ten tons of coal?

‘This is not the time to think of how rich I’d be if we had such a thing in real life!’

Leeha’s eyes widened as he stared at the Lava Lizards.

There was no room for jokes or leisure amongst these creatures who had to warm up the magma within the next three days.

“Can you do it?”

“Well, I have to try. For the safety and balance of the continent.”

The Lava Lizards nodded at Leeha’s words. Leeha saved the location and immediately moved to Gaza City.

“Paytor!”

“Yes, my lord.”

“How much do we have left in our vault?”

Leeha rushed to find the butler NPC as soon as he opened the inner city gate. Even though hunting for the vault first seemed presumptuous, the NPC butler couldn’t resent Leeha. Thanks to User’s unique buff, the 『Dignity』.

Upon hearing Leeha’s question, Paytor quickly opened the vault door.

Before figuring out how to move over 700 tons of coal, Leeha first wanted to verify whether he had the funds to acquire it. Yet his initial plan seemed to fall apart right from the start.

“We have none.”

“…… What? Where did all the money go?”

“For the next six weeks, the income for Gaza City will be zero.”

Paytor remained unflustered despite Leeha’s astounded expression, which only further befuddled Leeha.

“Why? Isn’t there some left-over from the basic income and expenditures- Oh, don’t tell me?!”

“That’s correct. You need to settle your debt with the lord of Castle Dale and master of the Hwahong guild…

“My surgical fee!”

There was no way there could be any money left. At least in terms of money, there was really nothing left that Hwahong could give Leeha.

Including the future revenue from Castle Dale, he still had to pay Hwahong the income of Gaza City for the next six weeks.

“……We’re screwed.”

Staring into the empty vault wasn’t going to spawn any money. With a vacant look on his face, Leeha stared at the vault.

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi!

There was only one person he could rely on now.

(To be continued…)
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Blaugrunn: “I can’t move right now! We’re still a long way off.”

Leeha: “Still? It’s taking so long even though I called your name?”

Blaugrunn: “My goodness. Who else would think of a dragon so lightly than Leeha-ssi? Everyone knows what a good person you are, worthy of becoming part of our clan, but the current situation is not easy for us to step forward.”

Leeha: “I tried explaining the situation to Blaugrunn, but all I got was a response saying it’s impossible.”

However, Leeha had no choice but to accept it. After all, the reason Blaugrunn was so busy running around was for my request.

Leeha: “Sigh…… What a predicament.”

Blaugrunn: “I can make time tomorrow, but if by any chance-”

Leeha: “You’re right. Even if we swiftly complete the quest with Blaugrunn-ssi’s help, it would be a complete mess if your side isn’t ready.”

Blaugrunn: “Exactly.”

Leeha: The reason Blaugrunn was running around was precisely for this quest. What will happen once we obtain the Fire Flower?

Blaugrunn: “Let’s deliver it to Onyx within 24 hours….”

Leeha: We have to give up on Koma.

This is the outcome Leeha wanted to avoid the most. However, what if he didn’t deliver it to Onyx?

Blaugrunn: Leeha would have to endure the persistent pursuit of the chromatic dragons, including the elder and black dragon, onyx.

The only way Leeha could think of to escape this situation was just one, and it’s because of that solution, Blaugrunn is incredibly distressed.

Leeha: “Oh right, we decided to get two Fire Flowers. Should we just give one of them to Onyx?”

Blaugrunn: “……I’d rather avoid that, as I think Lord would vehemently oppose it.”

Leeha: “Huh? Why?”

Blaugrunn: “I also heard about the Fire Flower for the first time and did some research on it…….”


As Leeha listened to Blaugrunn’s quiet voice, he couldn’t close his mouth.

Blaugrunn: I thought the Fire Flower wouldn’t be an ordinary item, ever since Ifrit, the King of Fire spirits, expressed his desire for it, but it was beyond my imagination.

Leeha: “You’ve got to be kidding me. Is that so?”

Blaugrunn: “Yes, why do you think they released Leeha-ssi, who’s practically a sworn enemy of the chromatic dragons? If you think about the effects of the Fire Flower, and if they are confident that we can actually obtain it… It’s only natural.”

Leeha: “If I can’t get it-”

Blaugrunn: “They’re probably tracking us, if enough time passes without any news, won’t they come to attack? It would be a piece of cake for Onyx.”

Although there was no failure deadline in the quest itself……

Leeha understood. He hadn’t experienced it himself, but he had heard stories about it.

‘There’s a deadline attached to the failure conditions when the timeline is crucial. However, a general quest also likely fails automatically if it’s neglected for more than a year, according to the community.’

Onyx could kill him at any time…

In order to save some face, onyx made efforts to obtain the Fire Flower.

Leeha: “I won’t be able to hand it over to Onyx.”

Blaugrunn: “If it’s to protect Leeha-ssi, then we might have to… but I wouldn’t recommend it from my perspective. There’s no guarantee Onyx will spare us even if we do hand it over.”

Leeha: “Okay. Got it. It should take about three days at most to obtain the Fire Flower. Please hurry.”

Blaugrunn: “Yes, Leeha-ssi.”

Leeha ended communication with Blaugrunn.

Blaugrunn said that he might hand over the Fire Flower to save him, but after hearing its effects, Leeha lost any intention of doing so.

Leeha: “I would rather just die, are you kidding me? I wouldn’t feed such a thing to a beast. Hmm, either way, I have to figure out how to heat it up.”

Leeha sat deeply in the lord’s chair, deep in thought.

The most rational method would be to buy coal. Leeha didn’t have money right now, but that’s not a hard task.


‘I could ask Ram Hyun to postpone the payment deadline. It’s the money that’s going to come in anyway, so she shouldn’t refuse it.’

After buying 700 tons of coal, either I can transport it by teleporting it into my bag around the clock for three days, or I can move it faster by borrowing Hyun’s power to move the space.

“Coal… Coal……

However, it feels strange and stingy to think of using someone else’s money. Should I be glad that I have this miser(?) mindset?

Leeha’s mind started twisting in another direction.

“The problem is the heating.”

What is heating?

It is to add heat.

To add heat to the already fiercely burning lava by throwing in the sufficiently energy rich kindling.

But what about another method?

‘Yes… Surely…

『Ultrahigh-Temperature Blast Furnace』

Description: “Can you heat all magma circulating beneath the earth? Fortunately, there are a few fuel bats that avoided your hands that are still alive, but their cave isn’t enough. They will become adults in a month, but right now we must heat the magma in three days. So, you have to find the way. A way to heat the magma until it becomes white hot.

If you can solve that, I will give you as many Fire Flowers as you want.”

Skink, who is in charge of the earth’s magma, is concerned about only this. Let’s find a way to heat up the 『Magma Origin』 of the Lava lizard tribe.

“That word is the keyword.”

Leeha perused and pondered the sentence in the quest window, then he opened his friends’ list. One person’s name caught his eye.

“I haven’t contacted you in a while! Have you been well?”Leeha whispered to him in a cheerful voice.

There was no answer for a moment, but finally his voice was heard after a few more instances of Leeha’s persistent whispers.

???: What now! Why again!


Leeha: Hehe，why, I’m here because I have something good to show you today,

???: Grrrrr，— No! I feel cheated again———-!

Although he wanted to scream just by hearing Leeha’s voice, once he started a conversation with Leeha, there was no way to avoid his snare.

It was a day and a half later that Leeha moved to the “Lonely Volcano.”

“Ssskink，what’s this?”

“It’s a key to heat the ‘Magma Origin.”

“Sssking，a key?”

The Lava Lizards looked at Leeha with their restless eyes. At the spot where Leeha smiled and called it a ‘key’, there was another person standing.

“Is it real…? They’re real lava lizards.”

“How many times have I told you? Don’t you trust me?”

“Yes, I don’t trust you! You know how many times I’ve had to grovel because of Leeha-ssi?”

“Hehe, just trust me for now. Trust starts from belief.”

Listening to Leeha’s nuances, there was a person who shivered. His face turned pale. It was a brief moment, but if you count the number of times he had been fooled by Leeha’s ‘scammer tone’, it was not a small number.

“Grrrr，every time I think of the new continent-”

“Still, there hasn’t been a single time you’ve been at a loss from listening to me, right? You made some achievement just now, didn’t you? ‘Guardian of the Lonely Volcano’s Fire’, s-class.” “-Cough… it’s true we did.”

“See! As long as this task ends well, I will take care of you. Ok, Pyro?”

The person Leeha brought was Pyro. He was one of the previous new continent explorers and the descendant of a fire sorcery hero.

Pyro glared at Leeha, fuming.

Always feeling deceived, he couldn’t deny it. It’s true that he benefited from listening to Leeha’s words, so he had no more words to say.

“Ssking, are you going to set this person on fire?”

“Huh? No! A fire does not only get stronger when you add fuel.”

“Sssking? Then what are you going to do?”

The Lava lizard twisted its head at Leeha’s words. Pyro, who was checking the S-class achievement, also came to his senses at Leeha’s voice.

“Just make a fire. Let’s go, to the ‘Magma Origin’.”

Leeha walked confidently.

The Lava Lizards still followed him with puzzled expressions. After checking their expressions, Leeha explained the principle briefly.

“Ordinary fire wouldn’t work. You would have to inject fuel and over-supply oxygen to increase the temperature.”

“Ssking，ssking.”

“But this isn’t ordinary ‘fire’, is it? It’s lava! There might be a way to set the fire by adding fuel, but at this point… well, should we call it a mass of iron?”

“Sssking?”

“What would it be like to keep firing a welding torch at a piece of iron?”

“Welding, ssking?”

The Lava Lizards were still puzzled.

Only one person, Pyro, who had already heard the explanation from Leeha, knew about this principle.

“The temperature of the iron keeps rising. Gee，I can’t believe I would meet a human being who recognizes me, Pyro, as a welding torch in my lifetime.”

“Alright，so here’s the thing, Pyro!”

Leeha spread his arms in front of the Magma Origin.

Pyro already knew what the big hole in front of Leeha was. Tiny red particles were accumulating around him.

“I need your help.”

“Underst- ood—–”

Chop, chop!

Pyro took a horse riding stance next to Leeha.”Whoooo”, he exhaled heavily, and more and more red light gathered around his physical body.

“Make the adjacent lizards moist…”

Whoosh!

Fire sprouted all over Pyro’s body. His transformation was so noticeable that even the Lava Lizards recoiled in surprise.

‘As expected… he hasn’t only been messing around.’

Although they’d witnessed various skills during the duel with Pitou and Shin Nara, and throughout their expedition to the New Continent, this was something different.

“Don’t forget to replenish mana—”

“Okay, don’t worry about it. I understand you need oxygen to weld.”

Pyro made yet another welding comparison, turning his head in disagreement, but he smiled. He always seemed to enjoy teasing people in an odd way.

‘I have to keep pouring mana potions. This tube of mana is linked to Pyro, creating an automatic supply system…

It took an extra day and a half to convince Pyro, largely because of this item. The ‘Mana Infuser’ that was borrowed from Ranhwa Yeon. In order to significantly speed up Ram Hwajung’s development, Hwahong wholeheartedly supported her, and so he crafted this item to make hunting monsters more efficient by exhaustively using mana. Ram Hwajung, who had gained full experience without grouping or having any help from anyone, was already starting to see changes in the rankings.

“Let’s gooooo—!”

Ssssssss I

Like the sound of a kettle boiling, steam rose from Pyro’s body. The color of the fire clinging to his body was gradually changing.

“Oh dear… As expected, this is remarkable.”

Leeha muttered under his breath as he stepped back.

Despite Pyro’s achievements in lava-related achievements, he still felt the heat! The flaming red fire clinging onto Pyro’s body passed through orange and yellow, and was finally losing its color.

It was indeed one of the reasons why Leeha thought of Pyro.

‘The only one who can achieve the required temperature for this quest, other than a dragon, would probably be Pyro.’

The keyword that Leeha focused on was correct. The color-changing nature of flames depending on temperature was nothing new.

Especially when using the skill ‘Fire Lord’, Pyro was already capable of reaching the temperature level Leeha desired. Would it be any different now?

“Storm of Chlorinated Flames!”

“——!!”

“My goodness!”

“Myong, myong, myong!”

A hot breeze that felt like it could burst blisters on the skin swept over Leeha’s whole body. If Zellapong hadn’t rapidly shielded him, he would undoubtedly have suffered flame damage, such was the destructive power!

Leeha thought of Ram Hwajung watching Pyro’s skill.

The energy emanating from the fiery assault was undoubtedly ‘fire’, but the cascading ‘white fire’ heading towards the magma source looked much like Ram Hwajung’s blizzard.

“Man, that’s even more impressive than I thought… But this isn’t the time to be amazed.”

Leeha hurriedly opened the quest window to check.

The rapid increase in the quest’s completion rate proved that the keywords he’d found were correct. 『Super High-Temperature Furnace』

Description: -A method to bring magma to a white heat-

Content: Objective: Reach target temperature at the 『Magma Origin Point』 (13%)

‘The white color of the flame implies super high temperature… and suggests that magma can be melted with this.’

With a pleased smile at the steadily increasing completion rate, Leeha ensured the mana feed to Pyro did not cut off.

“Roarrr——!”

“Gwooooooo——!”

The unique ki-hap every time mana was injected did cause a bit of concern. His firm riding stance quivered with effort…

‘Isn’t this too real? If he poops in that tiny game access box – Ugh, that’s a nightmare.’

However, he could never mention such thoughts to Pyro. (To be continued…)
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37%…” 43%…” 49%…”

“Let’s go, let’s go!”

Even while Leeha enjoyed the quest, Pyro was pouring out his sweat to his death’s breath.

“Pushoooooo——!”

“Hwahaaaaaaaaa—–!”

75%…, 88%…, 91%…, finally, a pleasant message showed up in Leeha’s view when it passed 99.5%.

『You have completed the Super High Temperature Furnace Quest.』

『You have leveled up.』

**** “You’ve done great work. I can really depend on Pyro.”

“Hwuhwhuk… Huhwuh.”

Pyro was so exhausted he couldn’t properly form words. Leeha patted his back a few times and approached the lava lizards.

“Now, check it out. Isn’t this temperature sufficient?”

“S-SSkink, Yes.”

The lava lizards couldn’t help but agree. Faster than they had anticipated, the magma erupting with bubbles was boiling vigorously.

“Human, you are more useful than fuel bats. Would you help us next time?

“Hwuk, no. I feel like my mana will burn out if I do this twice.”

Despite the lava lizards’ pleas, Pyro replies negatively. An energetic individual he may be, but he was well aware of his own limits.

It’s a safe bet that without Leeha’s mana charger borrowed from Lamyhayun, this would not have been possible.

“Alright. Pyro, do you have the scroll of return?”


“Of course, hwuk, but before that–”

Pyro, who had been sitting sprawled out on the floor, got up. He walked past Leeha and the lava lizard in a brisk stride.

“Where are you going? There’s no path that way!”

“I know. That’s the place where the lava was flowing earlier– Hwuk.”

“Huh? lava?”

Leeha and the lava lizards cautiously followed Pyro.

Who would go to the effort of moving separately into the uncharted area of the lava lizard tribe?

Only when they reached the first lava stream that Leeha and lava lizard had followed, Pyro began loosening his clothes.

It wasn’t a great sight- but it was unexpected.

“Pyro?”

“Hmm, that’s about it … a bit hotter than the old continent, I guess.”

“W-Wait. What are you going to do-”

“Aha. Since Leeha-ssi informed me of the achievement here, let me tell you, there’s another in the lava. Not sure if you can withstand it, but-”

“Whaat-!”

With his cheerful greetings, Pyro jumped into the lava stream. The lava lizards, with their satisfied expressions, nodded their heads.

“Skink, he is surely a pleasing human.”

“Skink, skink.”

Leeha looked as Pyro rubbed lava onto his shoulders and arms.

His actions, facial expression, tone…

“Ah this is refreshing. Have you heard of lava springs in Japan and Korea? In real life, it would be great to cleanse our waste material like this.”


“…l think, that’s not exactly what a lava spring means…”

“Don’t stay still, Leeha-ssi, you should come in, too. One achievement pops up in 30 minutes, let’s check if others show up in an hour.”

“N-No, that’s okay. I think I will pass.”

At Leeha’s rejection, he retreated back.

The achievement that he got when he swam and crossed the lava stream following the lava lizards, damn it… That’s right, if not Pyro, who else would have done it?

‘Whether I have to look at him as a dedicated user or someone who has lost his reason by half. Hmm.’

He once again looked at the headstrong man who wouldn’t hesitate to tackle anything related to ‘fire’ or ‘flame’ with astonishment. Soon, he said his goodbyes.

“Then, enjoy your bath!”

“Thank you for letting me know about this place.”

With the magma engulfing him, Pyro politely bowed towards Leeha. Despite his wavering and grumbling, he was a man who knew how to show gratitude.

Leeha waved back at him and then turned to Skink.

The lava lizards, too, seemed quite lively due to the delight of the successful Magma Origin.

On the way to Skink’s dwelling, Leeha couldn’t help but wonder.

‘But, how high is that human’s synchronization rate? No, what’s his fire resistance that he dives straight into lava?’

Even in the early Middle Earth, there have been cases of individuals plunging into lava due to a misstep, leading to a death in reality. Yet now, people are testing baths right in it.

Should this be seen as a game that evolved? Or a game that failed in balancing?

‘So the game itself is akin to fire? A divine tool when used properly, but also a source of death if misused…’

Shocked anew by the world of Middle Earth, Leeha reported the quest completion to Skink.

“Brilliant, human. Leeha.”

Skink looked truly amazed.


Perhaps he had been expecting Leeha to fail, or because he had initially forced the task upon him, his faith in Leeha had been quite low.

“Not at all. I fully understand the hardships of Skink-nim and the lava lizards. Once again, I salute your sacrifices for the stability and balance of the world.”

With Leeha fulfilling the quest requirements, there was no more need to hold back.

Having already raised the intimacy level sufficiently, Leeha’s tongue was as-nimble as slick oil.

Seeing Leeha’s courteous greeting, skink even showed signs of being moved.

“Now then…”

“Right. I’ll give you the promised Fire Flowers. Plus, a little gift for heating our 『Magma Origin』.”

“Hm, a gift?”

Though she already knew, Leeha asked, pretending to be ignorant.

Skink called Leeha over. She stopped when she was near the huge lizard’s maw.

“Born with the Lonely Volcano, skink, who lives with the lonely volcano…

Hiss-!

The giant lizard opened its massive jaws.

As the lizard’s tongue with myriad spines licked Leeha, and the deflated voice of Jellypong trailed off, the quest was truly accomplished.

Ba-bam!

『You have earned the title: Conqueror of lava.』

“Give Leeha two Fire Flowers.”

Zzing-!

At Skink’s command, the lava lizards bowed their heads.

With saliva drop dropping, Leeha followed them. The regrettable part was that her intimacy level hadn’t yet reached 100%.

‘Hmm, an intimacy level achievement would have been nice. Was the fuel bat massacre too impactful?’

It was no ordinary feat to raise the intimacy level from negative to 100%. Either multiple quests or something they especially favored would have to be presented.

Emerging from Skink’s dwelling, Leeha noticed a peculiar hole upon wandering around the porous reef.

If Skink’s lair was a giant hole, this one emitted peculiar red light.

“This place is…”

“This is where we grow Fire Flowers, skink.”

“Growing… I thought it might be, but truly…”

“Of course. skink. Thanks to the guardian spirit managing the magma, we are able to live off the grace of the Fire Flowers.”

The light spouting from the cave hole was emitted by the Fire Flowers. They looked like burning stigmas; they truly appeared to be flames to Leeha’s eyes.

Flickering like a candle flame, yet moist to touch like a petal. An in-game item with a peculiar texture that could not exist in reality. Leeha thoroughly felt this peculiar texture.

“Hmm, so it’s like this. And considering each stalk is considered as one, there are over a hundred here just from a glance.”

The Fire Flowers had nearly become extinct in the mainland but here, they could be artificially grown. This was the extent of Skink’s uniqueness.

Having heard about the efficacy of Fire Flowers from Blaugrunn, Leeha fully understood why the lava lizards describe it as a ‘blessing’.

“lizard No. 107-ssi.”

“S-skink?”

“How many more of these can I receive if I agree to another favor for you?”

Leeha was grinning broadly as she asked, her hands spread wide. The abrupt change in her behavior took the lava lizards aback for a moment, but they soon shook their heads in refusal.

“We cannot possibly give away the Fire Flower without Skink’s command.”

“Of course, that’s how it is, isn’t it?”

But what could possibly satisfy Skink? Leeha thought that she would have to collect several seeds from the contaminated world tree and shake Skink down (?). For now, the only thing she could obtain were two stems, both from the ‘Time Attack’.

“Please give me two of the plumpest ones.”

“Skink? What?”

“The ripest ones. Hmm, this one and this one? The flowers have bloomed well, like they should be.”

The lava lizards obediently complied with Leeha’s selection as if they were picking fruits at a market. Even after they plucked off the flower heads, the flame of the Fire Flower didn’t extinguish.

‘Even without its root, it keeps burning. Is the flower itself that flammable?’

The lava lizard then snapped off the two Fire Flowers chosen by Leeha and handed them over.

“Here, skink.”

Leeha examined the Fire Flowers closely. She wanted to grab them immediately, but she knew such an action required some resolve.

“Aren’t you going to take it?”

“Of course I am going to take it! I must take it. That’s why….. I have come this far.”

Leeha took a deep breath.

Then he grabbed the Fire Flower.

How wonderful it would be if she could simply carry the item around with her. However, unless it was an item that couldn’t be put in her bag, she had to always put it in her bag to claim ownership.

‘Alright, from now on-‘

Leeha opened her bag and placed the Fire Flower into it carefully with the hand that was holding it.

‘-it begins.’

At the same time, the hourglass was turned upside down.

『Becoming the Ultimate Dragon』 Content: Deliver the Fire Flower to Onyx within 24 hours after acquiring it.

*Time Remaining: 23 hours, 59 minutes

Leeha: Blaugrunn! Got the Fire Flower!

Blaugrunn: I’m almost done too!

Leeha: Okay, see you at Gaza City!

Blaugrunn: Okay!

After bidding the lava lizards goodbye, Leeha activated the crystal ball immediately.

Followed by a whooshing sound and the blending of violet hues, Leeha disappeared. Even after about 30 minutes had passed, the lava lizards could not return to their daily routine.

“Excuse me, lizard-nim.”

“Skink?”

“What did Leeha take earlier? What is that flower?”

A player called Pyro came over, dusting off the lava stuck to his body.

『Fight Fire with Fire』

Content: Acquire the Fire Flower and deliver it to Ifrit within 30 days (Remaining time: 10 days)

“Alright, the timing seems alright.”

Leeha had to log out often due to he rehabilitation treatment, but now he had a quest that took a whopping 20 days.

Without his Black Bass, he only had two musket-pistols as he ran towards the North Gate of Gaza City.

With a bright flash of turquoise blue, Blaugrunn looked up at Leeha with quite a disheveled expression.

“Oh dear, Blaugrunn-ssi seems exhausted.”

“…Do you even know how many days and nights I roamed around without sleep?”

“There, there. You worked hard. If this all goes well, I will give you some time off.”

Leeha tousled Blaugrunn’s hair and chuckled.

He pouted and showed his offense, but he worked so hard because he knew it was all for Leeha’s sake.

“Here.”

“Is this the Fire Flower… indeed there are two?”

“We-ell, didn’t I tell you? I do if I say I would.”

“… In that aspect, you’re truly surprising. I still can’t believe someone like Leeha-ssi acquired not one but two Fire Flowers.”

Despite sounding suspicious, there was a look of undeniable respect in his eyes.

Leeha shrugged with a grin and gently dropped one Fire Flower onto the ground of the ‘Special Management Zone’ just outside the North Gate of Gaza City.

As soon as the flame flower was placed on the ground where the seeds drawn from the fruits of the world tree were planted, an immediate reaction occurred.

“Be careful, Leeha-ssi, get back! Resist Fire!”

Blaugrunn stepped back and cast a fire resistance spell. However, Leeha didn’t follow him.

(To be continued…)
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“Leeha-ssi? If you stand too close, you’ll feel the heat—”

“Hehe, Blaugrunn-ssi? Can’t I withstand this kind of heat now? Remarkable isn’t it?”

Leeha’s increased resistance to fire from various achievements was gradually turning him into a superhuman.

Blaugrunn looked at Leeha with awe-filled eyes as he withstood heat that was difficult for even a dragon to cope with, even though he was still at the juvenile level.

Whoosh, whoosh!

From an otherwise barren land, a burst of flames surged and simmered down, revealing, behind the girl who ignited those blue flames from her back, the fire spirit king, ifrit, standing before them.

『Fire Flower! You, you, you really found it!』

“If I say I’ll do it, I do it! That’s my motto. I’m counting on you going forward, ifrit.”

Leeha revealed his white, even teeth in a professional smile.

『You have completed the “Fight Fire With Fire” quest.』

“Damn… I think I’m gonna die between working and resting.”

“How can you feel sleepy in a situation like this?”

“Well, you may not know because you’re here, Blaugrunn-ssi, but from meeting the bonobo or some kind of monkey, fighting in lava, to picking fire flowers. I practically haven’t had a proper rest day.”

“I didn’t rest either!”

“Haha, exactly. Let’s take a grand rest after this job is done.”

Leeha comfortingly patted Blaugrunn’s head, who was crying out in surprise.

The place where they were standing was somewhere in an infrequently visited plain, quite a way from the city Gaza. There were no surrounding monsters, it was not a common transit route, and thus not often occupied by others.

“Do you have any updates about the item I mentioned?”

“Not yet. As it’s something like a lens or glass, I asked the Silver Dragon race if they had anything…but no news yet. They mentioned having a crystal ball made out of ice though.”


“Hmm, a crystal ball… That’s uncertain.”

Could such a thing serve as a lens? Even if it could, it would be challenging to use it as the scope level Leeha and Bottleneck want at the moment.

‘I guess I need the eye of a monster from the new continent. Could I steal Argos’s eye from the vatican?’

Even with the high rapport he built up with the Ezwen religion, he could only think of these schemes out of desperation.

Somehow getting wrapped up in various quests and growing significantly, yet his ‘weapon’ remained the same.

“Finding and hunting down the largest bird monster on the new continent could be a start-”

An alert popped up in front of Leeha, who was scratching his chin and suggesting the next move to Blaugrunn.

『Your application for the synchronization rate increase has been approved.』

『Synchronization rate change candidate: Applicant Leeha』

『Synchronize change, current synchronization rate: 100%』

『From now on, you can enjoy sensations within Middle Earth on par with reality.』

『Beware, inappropriate play can harm the applicant’s body.』

『In the case of 100% synchronization, you can adjust each stat’s details.』

“Huh, what?”

Suddenly, Leeha’s vision darkened alongside a floating sensation.

As if every light in the world blinked on and off. After that, Leeha was amazed anew at the Middle Earth system.

“What’s the matter?”

“…What’s this…

Leeha had never experienced blurred vision since logging into Middle Earth for the first time.

However, if the display quality he’d been seeing till now was merely Full-HD, what he was seeing now was more than four times clearer and sharper than UHD.


“What? Why?”

“No, what is this- my eyes are spinning.”

Why would it seem clearer than looking bare-eyed at the world in reality? Leeha felt dizzy due to the unexpectedly heightened visual quality.

Taking a dizzying, unsteady step forward, the sensation of dirt through his shoes was enough to send chills down his spine.

“Crazy. These lunatics.”

“Huh? Who are you referring to?”

“…are all of them playing like this and not telling me!? Hahaha!”

Leeha had believed that a synchronization rate of 50% was more than enough to enjoy the game. After all, he had climbed to his current position with that level.

However, the sensation brought by a 100% synchronization rate was in a different league.

Considering simple calculations, experiencing more than twice the physical sensations should be expected. But the synergy of sensory upgrades doubling, has an impact beyond mere calculation. When Leeha burst into laughter, Blaugrunn cocked his head, completely confused by the situation.

“Do you really have time to laugh?”

“Huh? Pfft, why? What’s wrong?”

“There is. It’s about to happen.”

Even without being given a subject, Leeha could deduce his meaning. It meant something was coming soon.

“Ah… you’re right.”

Could the approval of the assimilation rate please him?

Leeha was abruptly covered in goosebumps. It was anything but a good thing.

‘Damn it, why must it be now?!’

『To Become the Strongest Dragon』

Content: Transfer 『Fire Flower』 to Onyx within 24 hours of acquisition


* Remaining Time : 2 minutes

In two minutes, at the time when Onyx would appear before him, a 100% assimilation rate will be applied! Leeha imagined the feeling of his whole body melting down under the black dragon’s Acid Breath.

“What should I do? What should I do?”

“What do you mean, what? Everything we’ve talked about so far-”

Before Blaugrunn could finish his sentence, Leeha’s body was teleported with a whoosh.

“… it was because of that. Stay strong, Leeha-nim.”

Blaugrunn looked up at the distant sky, checking where Leeha’s mana had disappeared to.

“Ah!”

The sensation of teleportation also felt different to Leeha, his muscles clenched with the sensation of being thrown.

The place he appeared was a large sports field-like space where Onyx once resided.

After confirming that he was standing in the same ‘altar’ as before, Leeha could see the numerous chromatic dragons around him.

“Hello, onyx-”

『Give it.』

The black dragon Onyx did not say anything else.

The remaining quest time was 1 minute. If he did not hand over the Fire Flower within a minute, Leeha would be met with immediate death on the spot.

“The… the Fire Flower, you mean?”

『Why even bother saying such useless things. What do you think I want from you?』

“Of course! Of course, it’s the Fire Flower. That’s why you’ve enchanted my bag. Hehe.”

Even while presenting a smile to Onyx, Leeha didn’t forget to survey his surroundings.

The number was a bit less than last time, but there were certainly about thirty dragons.

‘This time there are no juveniles. Purely adult and above, thirty in total.’

The black dragon Onyx and thirty adult or higher chromatic dragons.

The dragons present could easily annihilate the capitals of four countries of the old continent.

Especially now as all the elites of each nation have gone to the new continent, they could erase the entire nations from the map before they return.

“Right, where is the Fire Flower?”

Leeha started rummaging in his bag. If he could just hand over the item, he could also make progress in improving the relationship with the chromatic dragons.

『Becoming the Ultimate Dragon』

Reward: Familiarity with the Chromatic Dragon tribe +50%

Familiarity with the white dragon Shoblanc +100%

Familiarity with the green dragon Greenvogel +100%

Familiarity with the black dragon Onyx +100%

The familiarity with Onyx, the highest dragon of the chromatic dragons, would be reset to zero. From there again, by item offensives and various other efforts, his familiarity can be built up.

This is an opportunity to build a rapport with both metal and chromatic dragons for the first time in history. That was Leeha’s original plan.

The first plan that was theoretically possible.

『If you waste more time ……』

Even while Leeha reached into his bag and rummaged, onyx’s expression hardened.

Viewing Onyx’s dark complexion through a 100% assimilation rate vision felt more terrifying and menacing. His inky black eyes were fixed on him, a fact that Leeha was acutely aware of.

“Ah, found it. Found it. This is the Fire Flower.”

『Hm?』

Leeha knew he had to make a decision now. His hand in his bag signified that a message had arrived for Blaugrunn during his time-off.

He drew out his hand from the bag and extended it towards Onyx.

Where he had expected a Fire Flower to be clenched, however, his hand held nothing.

The only thing that had bloomed in his tightly curled fist was his middle finger.

“Eat this, you fool. I have nothing to give you”, he sneered.

『Incinerate』

『Grrrrr-!』

At Onyx’s command, a figure shot forward. It was none other than the red dragon, Lavartel who Leeha had encountered in the volcano of an old continent.

“Wait, just wait! All this over a little joke?! I need some time-”

『Blaaaaaaaaaaaaaa———–!』

Lavartel instantly exhaled a breath of fire.

Radiating scorching flames, it targeted the altar where Leeha stood.

Even the chromatic dragons standing on the opposite side of Lavartel had to step back. The range of the breath was wider than expected, and any dragons not yet at their peak could risk fatal injury, even if they used magic to protect themselves.

“Woaah!”

The fire-breath was unleashed in so short a time that even Blaugrunn had not yet arrived, and Leeha could not even use the Platinum Shield.

『You foolish boy. If you had brought the Fire Flower, I might have granted you an end to your suffering.』

Hearing Leeha’s screams, onyx wore a satisfied smile.

Whether Leeha brought the Fire Flower or not, his death was almost certain.

That was the flaw in the quest.

Even with Fire Flower, his intimacy score was 0%. This meant that if it didn’t go positive, his intimacy score essentially represented no relationship at all. No matter how much he tried to cultivate a friendly relationship, there would be no effect unless the other party accepted his efforts.

Could Onyx be persuaded by Leeha’s effort to establish a bond?

Could he become the first user to win the favor of both the metal dragon and the chromatic dragon?

“I knew it. I knew that even if I brought you the Fire Flower, you’d kill me, you black dragon.”

『Huh?』

The one who had investigated this was Blaugrunn.

Having informed Leeha of not only the tendencies of the black dragons, but also the relationship structure of the chromatic dragon tribes, Leeha was able to make the right choice.

『You, you- did you dare- to consume the Fire Flower-』

“That’s right. I ate it.”

『Legendary Fire Flower』

Effect : Fire Resistance +50%

Restores 30% of health from fire-attribute attack damage

Description: A flower that blooms only near lava, nourished by magma. The flame merely aids the growth of the Fire Flower.

Choosing to consume the Fire Flower instead of handing it over to Onyx.

『You have failed the quest to become the Ultimate Dragon.』

『You will be attacked by the Colored Dragons, including the black dragon Onyx.』

“You wanted to kill two birds with one stone by using me, didn’t you? Even the powerful figures among the metal dragons like the Platinum Dragon and Gold Dragon, most of them use fire-breaths. So, the value of the Fire Flower alone is sufficient. Especially for the red dragon, I know that it shares the same tribe as you, onyx but the red dragon has had a rivalry with the black dragons since Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s parents.”

『You, how dare you- Grrrrrrrr-』

Lavartel was taken aback.

The dragon blew another breath of fire with all its strength, but Leeha felt nothing but warmth.

Fire resistance and damage reduction are slightly different. Fire resistance not only reduces damage, but also prevents one from feeling the heat itself.

“Don’t waste your energy, Lavartel. It’s not me you need to be angry with, it’s Onyx over there. Wasn’t Onyx the one who killed the Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s father, who was the strongest of the red dragon tribe? Yet are you still going to live bowing your head to him?”

As Leeha took the dragon’s fire head-on, he tilted his head back as if it was merely water from a shower head.

『How dare you- and you, a mere human, insult us noble red dragons!』

“I’m not insulting, I’m showing you the right path. At least, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh tried. His efforts may have been misguided, but he at least tried to break free from Onyx’s tyranny. He didn’t live as a dog to a black dragon like you.”

『Shut uppppppppppp————-!』

Fuhaaaaaa!

Lavartel did not listen to Leeha’s words. The fire breath coming out of the mouth of red dragon was more powerful than ever.

Even some of the chromatic dragons had to use their shields to protect themselves from the stronger Lavartel’s breath. But Leeha merely licked his lips and pitied the sight of the red dragon.

(To be continued…)
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“Do you still not realize that it’s of no use to me… Well, a horsewhip is the best cure for a sober mind.”

『What, what—』

Leeha came rushing down from the edge of the platform, offering the most potent aid he could.

“Wake up! If such a brainless brute is the next leader of the red dragon, then ‘Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’ in hell would weep, he would weep!”

As he flew towards the face of the red dragon, countering the fiery breath hurled at him, he swung a musket-pistol, held upside down.

Thaaak-!

A satisfying sound emitted as the muzzle of the musket-pistol collided against the red dragon’s scaly maw.

『What’s going…?』

『How…how can a human resist the Breath without any trace of magic?』

Ravarule expressed his perplexity with interrupted breaths. The surrounding Chromatic Dragons were equally astonished.

In contrast, only Leeha and Onyx maintained their unchanged expressions.

『You bastard…!』

“The Fire Flower is quite nifty, isn’t it, onyx?”

Leeha exclaimed with a smile aimed at Onyx.

Out of them all, only Onyx had a clear understanding of Leeha’s situation.

After consuming the Fire Flower, Leeha had changed. His total resistance against flames had shot up to a staggering 125%.

Put simply, no external environment or attack made of fire could harm Leeha anymore.

Leeha glanced briefly at Onyx before alternately considering Ravarule and the other dragons.

“Think carefully, red. Not just Red, all you Colors. Who is your true enemy…”


『A brash human, jabbering away just because he has a mouth.』

“I’m not just talking because I have a mouth. I have ears to hear, a head to think, black dragon.”

『Well, that’s fortunate.』

“Pardon?”

Flap- Flap- Flap

The black dragon, onyx, took flight with slow flaps of his wings.

Having a strange exterior mixed with feathers and scales, the elder Chromatic Dragon made all surrounding dragons retreat.

『I’ll slowly dissolve your limbs with my Acid Breath, leaving only that ‘head’ of yours to go on living. I will make sure you can’t die until the location of the Fire Flower is burnt.』

“You fool, I told you earlier that I researched everything.”

『Huh?』

“I know you have Acid Breath. I also know that Fire Flowers can’t block that. But do you think I would still come unprepared?”

『What nonsense are you-』

“You’ll find out shortly whether it’s nonsense or not. Summon: Partner!”

A cyan flash dazzled beside Leeha.

A small boy, much smaller than Leeha, appeared. Still, there was no dragon present who did not know the bold-faced lad.

『A Bronze?』

『If he has summoned Bronze here-』

Only then did the sense of unease begin to circulate among the Chromatic Dragons. This place was used mainly by the Chromatic Dragons for their large-scale meetings.

Until now, they had kept it a secret from their enemies.

“Heh, you thought you could kidnap Leeha-nim of our metal dragon clan and keep this place a secret?”


The reason to summon Leeha here was partly due to the geographical advantage. However, it also meant revealing their location to the ‘enemy.’

Blaugrunn raised his hands towards the sky.

The turquoise beam fired with the force to reach the outer atmosphere signified something that Onyx knew.

『How dare you, such a juvenile and a human…』

Onyx spat out his Acid Breath. At that moment, a brilliant light that could blind all dragons started to pour out from Leeha’s side.

Shaaa—–

The colorless and odorless gas formed from the Acid Breath was shot towards the light, but it failed to inflict any damage on Leeha and Blaugrunn. With every touch of the acidic breath in the brilliant light, the surrounding scent of flowers only grew stronger.

“Uh, what is that? An Acacia scent?”

By the time it had become so strong that Leeha enjoyed smelling it, the dragons could finally scent it too.

『A conversion magic?』

『Well, if there is any being who can transform the Elder’s breath into a flower scent -〉

There is only one in this continent.

“It has been a while, onyx.”

A smile spread across the face of a single elderly man wearing a mage’s hat and holding a staff, standing next to Leeha.

『… Bahamut.』

『Bahamut!』

『The lord of metal dragons-』

『Protect the Elder!』

The chaos that ensued wasn’t because a dragon appeared in its dragon form. It was entirely because a single being in the form of a human appeared. Even so, the surrounding chromatic dragons were thrown into chaos. Among them, the one who showed the least surprise was the dragons’ elder.

『Can everyone just stop!』


At the heavy words of Onyx, the chromatic dragons ceased their movement.

『What a lousy bunch.』

There was a smirk on Bahamut’s face.

“Your abrasive voice is still unpleasant to listen to.”

『Enough jesting, filthy platinum. What is your purpose for daring to stick your head in here?』

“You, be more respectful now that you’re old. Tsk-tsk! How can a nobleman who’s risen to the elder of the chromatic dragons have such a foul mouth?”

『I told you to stop jesting.』

A ferocious aura emanated from Onyx’s eyes. At that, those rather tense became Leeha and Blaugrunn.

Leeha: Did, did Bahamut really understand our situation? Blaugrunn: Of course! The Lord wouldn’t not know! Leeha: But why is he poking the lion’s nose like that?

Even if it is Bahamut, how many chromatic dragons are around?

What if a fight broke out here?

‘The entire Middle Earth community would be upside down. No, not just the community, just…

The continent would be completely devastated.’

Not knowing Leeha’s worries, Bahamut burst out in hearty laughter.

“Hehe, if I don’t play a joke, then who will?”

『What are you talking about?』

As Onyx asked, Bahamut’s aura shifted.

“If I don’t play a joke… either Metal or Chromatic would be extinct here. Should I still not jest?”

Bahamut still had a smiling face.

But the atmosphere was completely different from the lively laughter earlier.

This is the Platinum Dragon, who alone among all the metal dragons can reach. The king of the metal dragons, and therefore, the ‘Queen’ of the Chromatic Dragons, Tiamat.

Onyx, the strongest Chromatic Dragon and elder, didn’t quite match Bahamut in hierarchy.

『… Nonsense.』

The proof of that was that Onyx’s momentum began to waver a little.

“Whether it’s come to an end, or not… perhaps our children should know better.”

Aaaah…!Bahamut flicked his finger, and with a sound that echoed like a reverberation, multicolored radiant light flashed around Leeha and Bahamut even before the echo subsided.

A silver-haired mage, a blonde warrior with wavy hair, a woman with matte gray hair and an unexpressive face… Dozens of people appeared around him in a blink of an eye.

Among them, some faces were familiar to Leeha.

They were members of the metal dragon clan, who he once met at Bahamut’s lair.

Leeha: Wooow! Blaugrunn-ssi!

Blaugrunn: Heheh, we’ve had so much trouble for this! We’ve successfully captured a bunch of metal dragons including Lord Bahamut!

Blaugrunn proudly raised his thumb next to Leeha.

While Leeha was having a hard time in the New Continent, Blaugrunn was accomplishing this mission in the Old Continent.

To persuade metal dragons of adult class or above who could stand against the Chromatic Dragons!

It wasn’t an ordinary task to persuade the metal dragons who mainly have individualistic character.

This was because there were many metal dragons who opposed the confrontation with the Chromatic Dragons despite having captured Bahamut, and some Dragons were not happy with the idea of helping humans, even though they were recognized as clan members.

However, despite all these objections.

The number of adult class Dragons who came to help Leeha exceeded twenty.

Leeha felt proud, thinking that he was loved by the Metal Clan.

『How dare these Metal bastards come here!』

『Elder! Give the order!』

The Chromatic Dragons roared and flew backward to create distance.

Despite their threatening appearances as if they would spew all kinds of breaths at any moment, no one made a move easily.

This was for the very same reason that Onyx couldn’t move easily.

“You can do it if you want.”

At Bahamut’s words, the Chromatic Dragons couldn’t even urge for order to attack anymore.

“You know what kind of result you can get from this. Because we have experience with Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’shi, that crazy one, so our kids are angry too.”

If at this point all those metal dragons really transform, a grand dragon battle would take place.

If so…. as he said, one of the two races would face genocide.

“Onyx.”

『…』

“Don’t touch Ha Leeha any more.”

Bahamut asserted to Onyx with his arm around Leeha’s shoulder. It was a warning more than just a simple statement.

『Is that human so important?』

“Hum… If you ask if he’s important, not really.”

“…What? What did you say-”

“Hehe, but it’s my promise. No matter how much I love joking around, I can’t just watch my promise being broken, can I?”

Leeha was stunned for a moment, but even before he could say anything, Bahamut spoke first. Still not satisfied, he shrugged his shoulders towards Onyx, who had shut his mouth.

“And Onyx, the guy you’re trying to kill isn’t easily killed. Just try bullying him later if you dare. But let me tell you something clearly. The day you do, the elder of the chromatic clan might change. Especially, you don’t know if Ifrit will appear in your dream and torment you all day long.”

『… You Metal leader. Don’t provoke me anymore.』

Leeha was ready to use the platinum shield at any moment.

As soon as Bahamut started teasing Onyx, he could see mana particles gathering inside Onyx.

If it was before, he could never have discovered it.

‘Is 100% synchronization capable of seeing this as well?’

Is the feeling of using a skill suddenly without casting all similar to this? More importantly….

Do the Dragons know Onyx is preparing something?

‘But how does Ifrit know that? Really this Bahamut guy… There was no chance for Blaugrunn to report in the meantime.

But he knows about the incident with the Fire Flower, ‘just now’!

It made Leeha think that Bahamut might be the NPC with the most access to information in Middle Earth.

“I know, I know. For now, I’ll consider we had a promise and back off. Right?”

『I will officially protest about today’s event soon. Haven’t you forgotten the promise we made not to infringe on each other’s territory?』

“… Well, do that.”

Blaugrunn lifted his hat and lightly saluted. As he saw Blaugrunn raising his staff, Leeha opened his mouth last.

“The red dragon before! Lavartel! Remember well, you guys! If the Fire Flower had fallen into Onyx’s hands, the Red clan like you could never have reached the position of the elder fo-”

Zap. As Bahamut struck the ground with his staff, all of the metal dragon clan, starting with Leeha, had their presence disappear.

『… Elder, what shall we do?』

『Get lost. I don’t want to see you.』

At the word of Onyx, the Chromatic Dragons immediately returned to their lair. The red dragon, Lavartel, whom Leeha had mentioned till the end, stayed watching Onyx for the longest time.

* * *

“Thank you for your aid, lord.”

He had heard that it wasn’t much of an issue earlier… such words came to the tip of his tongue, but Leeha barely swallowed them.

As Leeha politely bowed his head, Bahamut laughed cheerfully.

“It’s only natural for me to take care of my own kin. If you want to express thanks, do it to the other dragons.”

“I’m grateful to you all too.”

“Do not mention it. I owe you a great deal for saving Blaugrunn.”

“Even elder Bailephus likes Leeha-nim. Naturally, we also do.”

“By the way, I heard you went to get the Fire Flower, did you really get it? Where is it?”

“Could you lend me the water element you’re wearing for a few days? I would love to dissect it as a Silver clan member-”

『Meoow, myongmyong!』

The metal dragons appreciated Leeha for their own reasons and circumstances. Leeha, who had obtained the Fire Flower and ‘cleared’ Onyx’s quest without handing it over to Onyx, had other matters waiting.

Kijung: Hyung! They say there’s an 80% chance of a second wave a week from now, you’re going to be there, right?

Toon’s plan was slowly but surely progressing.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

The end was anticlimactic. But oh well.
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“Leeha-ssi! Where have you been lurking around?”

“It’s been a while, Ha Leeha.”

“What? Where did you sell your rifle?”

“You seem happy. Did you manage to accomplish another quest on your own?”

Bobae, Tale, Kijung, and Hyein directed their friendly greetings towards Leeha. From just the casual greetings they exchanged, it was evident what each person’s nature was.

“Nice to see you all again. I’ve been dealing with this and that. Hyein, you can stop being a sage and become a fortune teller.”

Leeha joked as he returned their greetings.

He was already aware that whispers about the first wave had spread throughout the community. The rumour that spread the most fervently was precisely about the experience points. The rumour claimed that almost all the users close to ranking in the first wave had levelled up. This fact had quickly reached all gamers.

Consequently, Juma City began to buzz with activity when whispers about the second wave began to spread.

“But in a week, with an 80% probability? Who told you that?”

“Bailephus. It was what the dragon said, so people trusted it.”

“Hmm…… Alexander…”

Whenever Leeha checked people through his friend window, Alexander’s location was invariably near Juma. Given that he was constantly hunting to maintain his rank 1 position, the fact that he had stopped moving might have seemed strange. But on consideration, he thought that maybe this wasn’t the case.

Could he be preparing something to level up faster considering the current situation?

“Exactly. Juma City is the hottest thing in Middle Earth right now, isn’t it? Not just the top ten, but probably all the top 100 rankers will gather here! I saw Kidd and Luger earlier. They seemed to be deciding on a good location too.”

Kijung was acting like an excited child.

Maybe because he had survived the first wave with plenty of energy left, he seemed more excited about levelling up again rather than worrying about the upcoming second wave.

‘Even after a week, I’ve only had Black Bass on me for ten days…’

If he could find Black Bass, he would have instantly decided to participate in the battle.


But for now, things are chaotic. With his musket and two pistols, it was definite that it would be impossible to fight with his current abilities.

“So, you are attending this time, right?”

“For real? You’re coming too? Okay! That’s a big thank you from our guild.”

“Why are you happy?”

“What? If you cover us, our death rate will drastically decrease, won’t it?”

“Shit! Do you think I’ll necessarily be by your guild?”

“Then? No?”

Kijung tilted his head as if he was saying something obvious.

It was difficult for Leeha to argue. If he had Black Bass, there was a high probability that he would have set his base in a place with a good view of his guild.

“Sorry, but don’t expect me to cover you. I can’t use my rifle until then. For now, I’ll just have to fight with my bare hands.”

“Bare hands? Then you’re just…”

Kijung stopped talking and swallowed his saliva. Leeha quickly guessed what he was about to say.

“Useless?”

“No, what do you mean useless! Would I think of you that way?”

“Hehe, whether I’m useful or not… I’ll show you on that day.”

Leeha just smiled. Without Black Bass, he was curious about how much strength he had left.

“By the way, Kijung. I didn’t come here because of this. I wanted to ask something.”

“What is it?”

Leeha brought up a topic he had suddenly remembered he was going to ask about. He saw Luger and Kidd somewhere in Juma, and checked the system notifications that appeared right before meeting Onix once again.

“I reached 100% in assimilation, what does it mean by ‘adjusting the specific stats’?”


［Assimilation rate adjustment application approved.］

［Assimilation rate change target: Applicant – Ha Leeha］

［Assimilation rate change, current assimilation rate: 100%］

［From now on, you can enjoy sensations in Middle Earth equal to that of reality.］

『Please be careful as inappropriate play can harm the applicant’s body.』

『While the assimilation rate is at 100%, you can adjust each of the specific stats.』

While reading the notice, everyone’s gaze was focused on Leeha.

They looked at him as though they had heard something they never heard before, which made Leeha feel embarrassed.

“Why, why are you looking at me like that? Did I do something wrong?”

“That’s true,-hyung! You’ve never adjusted the assimilation rate before, have you? Can’t believe it!”

“Impossible!”

“Leeha was at a 50% assimilation rate until now?”

“Can’t believe it. He had that kind of movement at just that level?”

“Haha, you were like that without adjusting the details? Even while travelling on the new continent, your assimilation rate was only 50%! I don’t feel like playing the game.”

Kijung, Bobae, Tale, and Hyein intervened one after another.

A moment later, Leeha got to hear about how to adjust the specific stats from them.

In Middle Earth, he finally got to unravel one of the long-standing mysteries he had wondered about.

* * *”Character Window!”

Name: Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 211 (3%)


Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 135

HP: 7,830 (5,481)

MP: 2,255

Stats: Strength 609(+524)

Agility 3,579(+1,292)

Intelligence 326(+275)

Constitution 291(+198) Mind 125(+115)

Remaining stat points: 0

“So, in its original state, these are the only stats…”

While my level has barely gone up compared to the old times, my stats have substantially increased due to achievements and the Hall of Fame registration.

Yet, what currently matters to Leeha isn’t how much his stats have risen.

“When the synchronization rate is above 60%, you are allowed to finely tune each stat… for example, if I say – ‘Stat Adjustment: Strength’!”

Shooo-

『You have achieved 100% synchronization.』

『Strength’s details are broken down into five categories.』

『Before adjustment: Uniform Distribution』

Strength – Pushing Power: 20%

Strength – Pulling Power: 20%

Strength – Gripping Power: 20%

Strength – Kicking Power: 20%

Strength – Instant Burst: 20%

『Please finalize the settings after adjusting your preferred category.』

“I see…”

This means we can adjust each detailed strength based on 100% strength!

At 60% ‘Pushing Power’ is opened, and at 70% ‘Pulling Power’ is opened.

“Concealing such a sweet tip! Damn Middle Earth-!”

Leeha fumed, but in reality, the moderators had not kept anything hidden.

The ‘experts’ who managed to adjust their synchronization rate above 60% had just chosen not to leak any information.

“That being said, there were comments about it in the community. That you could fine-tune each stat. And besides, I was also getting used to my body in Middle Earth.”

What happens if you swing your sword a lot in Middle Earth? Your movement becomes smoother and faster.

It’s not just because you’ve become accustomed to the movements.

If you swung your sword for more than four hours and earned one strength stat point, that point is not distributed uniformly but is allocated to the essential power for swinging the sword.

For instance, the way it was distributed was 50% each to the gripping power and instant burst!

How you swing your sword, whether you drilled for four hours or slashed for four hours, affects the distribution differently.

‘Makes sense…… As expected.’

It was only reasonable that a game as sophisticated as Middle Earth wouldn’t be composed of just five stats.

There’s a distinction between those who thought vaguely that the AI would correct appropriately, and those who strove to uncover this secret.

“The resistance to magic was also hidden within the mind stat, and even constitution has separate elements such as recovery and damage reduction when hit. Is this something akin to endurance? I never expected the ‘constitution’ section to include lung capacity.”

Leeha harbored joyful contemplation looking over the stat system newly opened by his raised synchronization rate.

Yet, most of the things didn’t really need to be touched.

Because what mattered to Leeha at the moment wasn’t constitution, mind, or anything like that.”Stat Adjustment: Agility.”

『You have achieved 100% Agility.』

『Agility stat is divided into five subcategories.』

『Before Adjustment: Equal Distribution』

Agility: Running: 20%

Agility: Reflexes: 20%

Agility: Balance: 20%

Agility: Hand-eye Coordination: 20%

Agility: Kinesthetic Vision: 20%

『Please adjust the subcategories as desired and confirm your settings.』

“I knew it! That kid! It seemed weird that he could run faster than me! He must have been taking advantage of this!”

It was impossible to know Kidd’s exact stats but there was one certainty.

Currently, his agility stat is higher than Kidd’s. Even though Kidd started playing Middle Earth before him and was the first to earn the title of Musketeer, stats are a separate matter.

After collecting achievements and increasing his stats, he still felt like he was always falling behind when running against Kidd.

‘This must have been his secret all along – shoot with your feet.’

After hearing this phrase from Browless, the sudden increase in Kidd’s speed also made sense. He must have adjusted his subcategories as well.

“Let’s start by increasing Running to 100%.”

He adjusted the Running subcategory to 100%. It was possible to test because adjusting each subcategory was not a one-time thing.

‘You can only do this within a town and when you haven’t been in a fight for 20 minutes.’

This was Middle Earth’s measure to prevent sudden changes in the outcome of a battle through the adjustment of stats.

As long as these rules were followed, there were no restrictions on how many times it could be adjusted.

“Alright, then let’s adjust the Running stat to-”

Whooooosh-

“-what- whaaat?!”

Bwoooooshhhh….

“Oooooohhhh!”

Just taking a step was wreaking havoc. His mistake was putting all of the massive 3,500 Agility points into the ‘Running’ subcategory!

“Ahhhh!”

“Is that a tornado?!”

“Something just flew by!”

“I’m sorry! I’m sorry!”

He was yelling as he ran, but no one could see him, and they could hardly hear him.

With his speed now, it was even hard for him to perceive the world around him.

“Stop, stop, stop!”

Screeeeeee-……!

Only after putting force into both his legs to stop himself was he able to actually come to a halt.

He had run from the right outskirts of Juma City where there were fewer people to test, but unexpectedly his body had already reached the left fence.

“This is like… when I caught that roadrunner.”

Whilst murmuring, his lips were twisted into a broad smile. If investing this much into Running resulted in this, then what would happen to the other subcategories?

“No, wait. The stat says ‘Running’ but does it only apply to actually running?”

He looked around, then crouched down on the ground. Would crawling also be classified as ‘Running’?

He adopted a low crouch.

Even though it provides the best cover, crawling is the slowest mode of travel due to our physical limitations.

“Alright, let’s head to the square- whoooa!”

As soon as he started, he found that his understanding had been completely turned upside down.

Impossible for a human? Maybe, but it was definitely possible in Middle Earth.

As his elbows dug into the floor with each forward movement, it catapulted him swiftly forwards, like a snake slithering at an impossible speed. No snake in Middle Earth could possibly move as fast as him now.

“Wha- What is going on now?!”

“Wh-Who is that? What are they doing?”

“Is that a monster? How- How can he crawl so fast?”

“It’s a bug! A hacker! He’s a hacker!”

(To be continued…)
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Shaak, shaak, shaak!

Many people were astounded as Leeha skillfully maneuvered around the Juma City Square.

Slithering under other people might not be a pleasant experience, but the overwhelming sense of speed almost made him burst into laughter.

“Take a snap, let’s follow him!”

“Huh?”

However, attention-grabbing behavior often piques the curiosity of people. A few users in Juma started following Leeha.

After confirming the users trailing him with a quick glance, Leeha laughed again.

“When I used to race my recruits, I told them that I could slither faster than they could run……

He then gathered strength into his arms. With agile stats of 3,500 and a 100% was put to running, how fast could the top speed be?

“Seems like I’ve actually gotten faster.”

Papapapapapak-!

The sand and gravel of Juma City popped like popcorn.

Title: Probably a Giant Bug from Redwood

Title: There was a Huge Wheel Bug in Juma?

Title: Hey, what kind of creature is that, crawling? Miyaw?

Title: Lre: Miyaw walk on four feet, they don’t crawl.

Title: (Snapshot Available) I’ve never been unable to follow a crawling creature before.

Title: Lre: It looks human.

Title: Lre Lre: What kind of human can crawl that fast?


About two hours later, several curious posts had inevitably appeared on the Middle Earth community.

After fully enjoying the ensuing commotion, Leeha began thinking seriously about his stats.

Each of the stats, which he hadn’t thought of as useful before, now seemed valuable.

‘Maybe I can create new dynamics from the combination of the detailed stats from strength and agility?’

If he focused on ‘Force of Momentary Concentration’ from the strength, and ‘Kinesthetic Visual Closing’ speed from agility? He would be able to deal maximum damage at the exact moment he strikes or slashes at a monster.

“Kidd probably boosted running and balancing stats? But because it’s a 100% standard distribution, something must have been reduced… maybe he reduced kinesthetic visual speed? No, that can’t be.”

Leeha remembered Kidd’s 『Quick Shot』 skill.

He managed to hit moving targets without proper aiming, just by firing from his hip.

‘Given that, the kinesthetic visual speed is certainly necessary, and the coordination of hands and eyes must be important. How did he distribute the stats?’

Now that Leeha knew there were detailed stats, his dilemma worsened. He felt that all stats were equally needed, and it was tempting to keep an even distribution.

‘Unfairly saying to distribute it by 100%. It would be better if we can get everything 100%! So, what I’m good at is-‘

While fiddling with his stats, Leeha suddenly had another thought: what is the real meaning behind allowing us to adjust the stats?

As Middle Earth always encourages thinking and planning, what kind of twist could it bring?

“I am supposed to raise what I’m confident about…… Middle Earth is a place where actual abilities are reflected as game abilities. So, wouldn’t it be better to minimize the help of stats for tasks we can perform well in reality?

“What if I reduce the weight of the parts I’m confident about and increase the weight of the parts I’m not confident about?”

That might be the beauty of adjusting the detailed stats.

Bravely reducing parts that skills can cover, and getting superior enhancement by adjusting stats where there are deficits!

“Hmm, easier said than done. There’s not much important about sniping, and if I had to pick something, it would probably be ‘balance’.”

Leeha thought balance was more important than kinesthetic visual speed and reflexes.

The ability to handle weapons fluently with hand and eye coordination, due to his 100% synchronization rate, could be said to be the most important of the detailed stats under Agility.


‘But in my case……’

He wouldn’t be exaggerating if he said that he doesn’t need those stats at all in handling the Black Bass. It’s his weapon, almost a part of him.

“But what about now when there’s no Black Bass?”

He can’t even predict when the second wave will hit.

The only thing he could use until then was the two musket-pistols. Leeha nodded his head as he finished adjusting the specific stats.

“Good. Concentrate on strength for clutching and kicking. As for agility, focus on running and hand-eye coordination. Then, just adjust intelligence- Stat adjustment: Intelligence!”

Leeha opened up the specific stat for intelligence.

What does intelligence mean? It simply doesn’t mean having a smart brain.

Among the stat’s specific adjustments that mean ‘brain’s perception’, Leeha had captivated something.

Intelligence: Object Recognition: 20%

Revealed even at a 60% synchronization level as it is at the top.

Maybe because intelligence stat is intensely concentrated on by many jobs in the mage series, it doesn’t seem like ‘Object Recognition’ would be important.

‘Object Recognition’ was mostly ignored as it could be only used for faster distinguishing and digging out the potion ingredients required to practice magic in the vast grassland.

“There was treasure here…”

But it wasn’t an exaggeration to say it was one of the most important stats for a sniper.

This means that the accuracy of sniping greatly increases by having a much clearer vision of far-distance targets.

Leeha checked his intelligence stat.

His agility exceeds 3,500, yet

the intelligence was only around 326.

‘From now on, I’ll have to refrain from placing all stats on agility.’ Until obtaining a higher-grade scope, Leeha’s main focus for his stats would be intelligence.


“Do you have any pain in your waist?”

“No, I’m perfectly fine. My calf and ankle senses are even clearer.”

“Um, um… Okay. I’ll tell Dr. Heinrich.”

The nurse nodded her head quickly after listening to Leeha’s explanation. Seeing her bright expression, Leeha also felt joyful.

“So, is my rehabilitation coming to an end soon?”

“The exact schedule will be directed by the doctor but, it’s likely so. I’ve never seen someone rehabilitate so quickly, so I’m not entirely sure.”

“Ha, finally I can say goodbye to the life in Hong Kong!”

How much time has passed? When Leeha first boarded the flight to Hong Kong, he thought he would be returning to Korea within 3-4 days. However, he had to stay in a Hong Kong hospital since he was receiving daily rehabilitation after surgery. He could not describe how frustrated he was.

“You’re happy to go back?”

“Oh, Hwayeon-ssi! It’s been a while!”

“Long time, what are you talking about? Tch.”

She had been peeping at Leeha, who was immersed in Middle Earth, from inside the Middle Earth Connecter. To Leeha, it felt a long time since he last saw her but to Hwayeon, she had been looking at him all along yesterday and the day before.

“What do you mean, ‘it’s been a while’? It’s not entirely wrong, I suppose.”

“So, why are you so happy to go to Korea?”

In other words, going to Korea means moving away from Hwayeon. Naturally, she felt upset.

Upsetting her, who has been doing this much for him, wouldn’t do Leeha any good either.

“You haven’t done it yet.”

“What?”

“Seoul… what was the neighborhood called again? Anyway, check this paperwork. The interior work is finished and the grand opening is planned soon.”

“Wait, what’s this paperwork? How, how did you get a hold of this?”

“Did you forget that we’re conducting a business in Korea? Although I couldn’t physically be present, it wasn’t much trouble to have our employees run brief investigations.”

The real purpose for Hwayeon and Hwajung’s visit to Korea was to determine a site for Ram Long Group’s Korean resort venture.

Having numerous employees dispatched to Korea at her disposal, a simple task like this was nothing for Hwayeon.

However, looking at the contents typed out meticulously in the document, something gave Leeha a slight chill.

‘She’s a truly terrifying woman. What is this – a market analysis? How did she manage to do all this?’

Information such as day-to-day population analysis around the location of his mother’s store was included… At this point, he wouldn’t be surprised if Hwayeon even knew his home address.”Do you know that Chiyou has risen to the 8th place in the ranking again? Faust has moved up to 9th.”

“Huh? Ah, yes. Speaking of which, how’s Ram Hwajung doing?”

Chiyou had fallen to 9th in the rankings after a joint operation with Leeha and Byulcho.

However, after the public debut of ‘Yamato’, she was back in 8th place again, her lightning-fast recovery in the rankings was quite remarkable, even attracting the community users to lick their lips in astonishment.

It was only natural that the user’s focus shifted to Ram Hwajung, who was ranked 7th.

‘Nara-ssi was in 6th place. Hmm, I would like Rwam Hwajung to rise, but that would mean Nara-ssi would fall… If we stand still, Chiyou might catch up to both.’

Would they have noticed Leeha’s idle thoughts? Ram Hwayeon chuckled and spoke to Leeha.

“Did you not understand after seeing the performance of the ‘Mana Injector’ you borrowed?”

“Ah! Right, thank you for that. Because of it-…. Wait, what?”

“Don’t think too much about it. The strange thing is that we haven’t been able to catch up with that woman who is warping time in the Castle of Fibiel all this time.”

“So, Ram Hwajung’s ranking is-”

“She’ll probably reach 6th place tonight”, said Ram Hwayeon confidently. One of the biggest secrets in Middle Earth is the situation of one’s level and experience points.

Especially for those in the top 100 rankings, it’s absolutely necessary. The rankings in Middle Earth are decided solely by level, disregarding all other elements.

‘Ram Hwayeon’s confidence implies… she must have a near-perfect grasp on Leeha’s level and experience points.’

Given her intelligence, this would certainly be true.

“You wouldn’t be the kind of guy to blurt out everything to Shin Nara, would you?”

“Wh…what! Do I look like I have a loose tongue?”

Would Ram Hwayeon have intended to say, “looks like it”? Her throat rumbled, but no words came out.

Seeing Leeha’s flustered face, Ram Hwayeon smiled.

Leeha couldn’t counter her, who seemed to be enjoying watching his reaction.

“So when are you going to return the ‘Mana Injector’ you borrowed?”

“You’re already rushing me?”

“I’m going to Korea soon. I have to get it back before then.”

“That’s harsh, really harsh.”

Leeha shook his head lightly and then suddenly slapped the back of his hand as if he remembered something.

“Right! Is Ram Hwajung currently online? And you, Ram Hwayeon, do you have time now? Let’s log into Middle Earth!”

“…Are you going to repay me inside Middle Earth?”

“Huh? Yea, why not? I don’t have anything to give you in real life. Haha.”

Leeha demonstrated the emptiness of his hospital gown pockets. What was even more absurd was that Ram Hwayeon accepted it.

Who said you have to repay with money?

‘What I wanted… Damn, anyway, it’s not like I can eat or drink gratitude.’

Even if his gratitude was accompanied by a casual skinship(?), she would have let it slide.

Seeing the color of Ram Hwayeon’s cheeks puffing up, Leeha kept a confident grin on his face.

“Well, try logging in for now. You’re in for a surprise!”

“When you say it like that, I can’t help but give in. Alright. So, where should we meet?”

Leeha spread his shoulders wide and thumped his chest.

“Come to Gaza City.”

It was something he had planned to try at least once. And it was time to wrap up something he thought was absolutely necessary for the future.

* * *

“Bottleneck-ssi! Just in time!”

The place that Leeha was headed to was Bottleneck blacksmith’s workshop. The sound of the hammer was echoing loudly as always, but the expression on the blacksmiths’ faces was not pleasant.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 581

				
Arcane Sniper 581 “What’s wrong? Why are you so down? The Beard Brothers too! The weather is perfectly fine, cheer up!”

“Some people really do seem like they live with no worries. How nice that must be.”

Bottleneck appeared lackluster, barely even being able to tease his friends. His spirit was even more depleted than one would think. Seeing him in this state, Leeha gave a signal of some sorts to the Beard Brothers.

‘What’s going on?’

‘It’s because of the bonobo paleos that Lord taught us… These days, boss’ beard is almost falling off.’

‘bonobo? Why?’

‘Even though we are going to learn twice a week, we are not seeing any results. It would be nice if we could apply what we learned there here. But isn’t the environment different?’

‘You’re right. Even though we are busy during the day, we try to utilize that technology somehow at night, even reducing our sleep… It’s quite pitiful to see.’ The Beard Brothers whispered quietly. Bottleneck seemed unaffected, regardless of their chit-chat.

“Wow… So…”

Leeha then realized, again, the power of an ‘artisan’ NPC.

The fact that they were willing to put in all that effort, even sacrificing their sleep, just to properly utilize what they had learned, was quite pitiful. And it makes sense, given the Beard Hyung’s situation. Just as they said, the environment is quite different.

The firepower and mana production capabilities between the bonobo paleos’ ‘factory’ and the ‘blacksmith’ of Gaza City are fundamentally different, and this gap cannot be bridged with just effort and skills.

“So, everyone! Focus here – clack!”

As Leeha clapped his hands to attract the attention of Dwarves, a powerful tackle came from behind.

The strength was enough to sway him— the one who had rushed and grasped him by the waist was a girl with flowing blue hair.

“Oppa.”

“Le… Ram Hwajung, it’s been a while.”

“I see you are still as busy as ever. I just wish Castle Dale could keep up with even half the pace of this place. So, why have you called me here? It’s been a while since I’ve seen the dirty-bearded dwarf ajussi, too.”

Though Ram Hwayeon tried to deliberately start a fight, Bottleneck just shook his head and kept his distance.

While Ram Hwayeon was slightly taken aback by Bottleneck’s changed reaction, Leeha managed to gather everyone’s attention.


“Look! Look! There is a reason for my visit today! Bottleneck-ajussi, and the Beard Brothers and the Dwarves, all of you, pay attention! This isn’t an opportunity that comes every day!”

“Oppa, you’re like a quack doctor.”

“Hey, a quack doctor? That’s not a word that Ram Hwajung should use, where did you learn that?”

As Leeha tilted his head in confusion, Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwayeon burst out laughing. Bottleneck continued to wear a complex expression.

“In any case, you’re rather spiritless. What are you planning to do this time?”

“Bottleneck-ajussi, we are not using this area, right?”

Ignoring Ram Hwayeon’s question, Leeha walked over to the side of the blacksmith.

It was a somewhat spacious vacant lot that was used to stack up created items.

“There? Well, I use it when constructing large pieces, like fortification equipment, but not currently.”

“Hmm… Well, let’s give it a try for now.”

“Huh?”

“In terms of technical skills, you’re not losing to bonobo paleos, right?”

Leeha patted Bottleneck’s shoulder. Usually, Bottleneck would have flared up, ‘Who are you acting so bold with!’

However, he didn’t seem to have the energy to fuss. Bottleneck merely shook his head. This was the first time Leeha saw Bottlebeck so sapped of energy that it tugged at his heart.

“And what does that amount to? If the environment does not permit-”

“So, I will create that environment for you.”

“What can you do, my Lord? Even if you increase the subsidy, it’s physically impossible. Unless you pour in magma-”

“Then, let’s pour in magma, shall we?”

“What- What are you doing, Leeha?”

Upon seeing Leeha’s smile, both Bottleneck and Ram Hwayeon widened their eyes. While they couldn’t comprehend the whole situation, Ram Hwayeon also seemed to catch on quickly.


“Ram Hwayeon, this is also a gift for you and Ram Hwajung. It’s also an opportunity to upgrade Gaza City once again.”

Leeha calmly cast his spell. Bright red particles began to gather around his body.

“You, you, surely-”

“Hyung. Fire. Magic.”

“You, my Lord?!”

“Bo, boss! The ground- the ground is shaking!”

As brightly colored particles continued to converge on Leeha, the ground of Gaza City began to tremble. Even the NPCs, startled by the sudden earthquake, began to poke their heads out of their houses.

Leeha smiled at them faintly. What he gained from the lava lizard quest wasn’t just 『Fire Flower』.

“This is why I can’t give up Middle Earth. 『Magma Eruption』.”

When Leeha murmured the skill name quietly, the ground next to Bottleneck’s blacksmith exploded.

* * *

『Achievement: Magma Master(S)』

Congratulations! You successfully regulated the heat of the Magma Origin, a substance that can influence all magma underground. Stink, who dedicated his entire life to the control of magma, is overjoyed to see your dedication. He’s pleased that the lonely volcano’s fire guardian no longer has to bear all the burden alone. Stink and the lava lizards are planning to offer you gifts. Given that you can regulate the temperature of the Magma Origin, you should also be able to make useful use of a few lava rivers flowing under all continents, right?

Reward: Intelligence +15, mind +10, fire Resistance +10%, skill-(Magma Eruption)

This qualifies you as the first registrant of Lonely Volcano’s Fire guardian achievement. The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame and receive an additional 200% of the initial effect. Effect: Intelligence +30, mind +20, fire Resistance +20%

Even while consuming Fire Flower, your fire resistance cannot exceed 100% in certain situations. Moreover, you can’t reach more than 300 points in intelligence if you’ve barely touched the intelligence stat. The possibility of achieving it was all thanks to the achievements collected at the Lonely Volcano. Among them, the achievement ‘Magma Master’, was the most beneficial! ‘Raising my intelligence and Mind seemed pointless before, but now I see the benefit of the effect of water recognition. They say everything happens for a reason…’ What about this new skill, magma Eruption?

“The earth is splitting! The earth is-”

“lava! lava is spurting out!” At this point, Leeha looked towards Bottleneck.

“It’s all because I…”

Leeha couldn’t complete my sentence before it ended prematurely. Bottleneck was not even looking at me. His gleaming eyes were fixed on the lava fountain spurting from the earth. Shaking his head at the treasure-like excitement in the old dwarf’s face, Leeha had to admit it.


‘This damn game… It moved me quite a lot.’

How much fun is it to meet someone with such a pure craftsman spirit? Even though it’s just a game, Leeha felt like I had learned another lesson from the world.

On top of that, having befriended such a dwarf, how tremendous a luck was that?!

“Hey Bottleneck, what do you think? With this, we shouldn’t lose to those arrogant bonobo anymore, right?”

“Ha, haha! Is this effect due to your skill?”

“Yes. I can’t use it repeatedly since it has a usage limit but it’s quite useful-”

“Hey, idiot!” “Ah- oops! Why are you hitting me!”

Ram Hwayeon quickly walked over and slapped Leeha on the shoulder. Leeha massaged his shoulder, confused. While still me looking pleased, all Ram Hwayeon could do was pull a face.

“Dimwit, you should have warned us before using it! What happens when you erupt lava in the middle of downtown!”

“Why?”

“Oppa. You dodo.”

Ram Hwayeon had been casting a spell unnoticed.

Leeha, who had only been thinking of creating an environment like bonobo paleo’s factory, had neglected to think of the surrounding consequences and carelessly acted. Those around him, however, understood the severity of the situation. 『Coughing』

“Crap, there’s toxic gas too!”

“Control the lava eruption first! Boss! What should we do?!”

Watching the frantic dwarfs, I suddenly realized. Erupting magma from the ground is an extremely risky. Erupting magma…

Is not a simple act of ejecting magma on the earth’s surface. It releases countless amounts of accompanied toxic gas, and brings about destructive power too.

In other words, you need to have the ability to control it, to master the magma.

“Ah… dammit! That idea-” “It’s okay. Oppa. Gust.”

Wooosh—- While Leeha was lost in thought, Hwajung had already started casting a spell, releasing a cold wind from her hands.

Her skill, which seemed to have come directly from the Arctic wind, was potent enough to blow away all the poisonous gases leaking from the lava pit.

The icy wind also stirred up Bottleneck’s alertness.

“What a stupid lord! What will you do if the lava comes out in the middle of the city?”

“Well, well- I didn’t consider the possibilities-”

“The whole city would’ve been doomed without me! Grab all the building materials we borrowed from those bonobo! We start with waterways!”

“Boss, shouldn’t we fill the hole?”

“You fools! Why would we fill it? We can make use of the lava. Never again will we hear insults from those monkeys asking whether our stupid heads can only grow hair beneath our jaws! Move!”

Whoahoah—-!

The boss is back!

Let’s move, move—-!

Bottleneck shouted stirring the workers into action.

The dwarves’ enthusiasm escalated each time Hwajung expelled the poisonous gases.

“This is certainly more interesting than the fountain show in Dubai. But is this how you pay back for borrowing the Mana Injection tool?”

“No, it can’t be. Bottleneck-ssi! Now that we have this lava, we can do it now, right?”

“Of course! I’ve thoroughly studied the theory! We can even enhance items in the Gaza City!”

Enthusiastically, Bottleneck shouted out while shifting materials. At the word ‘Enhance’, the Ram sisters’ eyes went wide.

“Enhance?”

“Enhance!”

“Right. Well, it’s too bad that the perceptive Hwayeon didn’t notice that I had left my weapon behind.”

“Well, I knew that from the beginning! But surely, you mean you’ve left the weapon somewhere to enhance it now?”

“That’s right. Did you feel that it was something more than mere durability enhancement? Hehe. Between you and me, you can look forward to the transformation of your tiny wand.”

Leeha had a plan in place. He intended to introduce the function of ‘Enhancement’ at the Gaza City’s blacksmith!

Bottleneck and his dwarves possessed a level of skill that astounded the bonobo of the lava forest.

This in mind, once they got used to enhancement, there would be no more need for external assistance.

‘We can enhance the power of Black Bass through Bottleneck without any special quests. Of course, we need to get the hang of using lava for enhancement… In the meantime, using the weapons of characters like Hwajung and others as a test run to improve Bottleneck’s proficiency wouldn’t hurt, right?

“We are not doing it for everyone, of course. Feel free to be thankful to be the first one who gets to experience this special system, limited to the nobility personally appointed by the Lord.”

Leeha’s proposition to enhance Hwajung’s weapon involved a strategic calculation.

“…… Wow, you really are…”

“Oppa. You’re cool.”

It was impossible for Hwajung not to find Leeha’s offer to make her stronger, attractive. The moment she jumped in, Leeha comically winced and rolled on the floor.

Despite all this, Hwayeon looked at them with a gentle look in her eyes.

“He’s an amazing man.”

Afterwards, rumors spread that a strange building was erected in the Gaza City, but it caught no one’s interest.

What sparked the players’ interest was more the rumors that novices hunting around the Gaza City were suddenly attacked by a large-scale abnormal status magic.

“Phew, is the work almost done.”

“I suppose so. Wow, this damn lava is hard to handle.”

Leeha took a break, wiping his sweat with a handkerchief and resting his hand on his hip. Carsick Bottleneck used an old cloth to wipe away the grime smeared in his beard.

(To be continued…)”
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It had been already 7 days since the first burst of lava.

Except for the time Leeha had logged out, he had been continuously staying in Gaza City, assisting Bottleneck.

Leeha didn’t need to exert much effort as Faitorn, an NPC butler, could quickly carry out various support tasks, which kept him busier than expected.

‘It took a solid week, after all.’ Where, a week ago, had been a stockpile next to the Bottleneck blacksmith, a building with an impressive exterior had been built.

‘Ah! No, I’ve been mistaken because I’m too accustomed to the game.’

Leeha shook his head, looking at the work he created.

‘It only took me a week to build the system that controls the lava of the bonobo paleos. It’s amazing. Good job, Leeha.’

Leeha reassured himself.

Of course, this was possible because Bottleneck had ‘stolen’ the knowledge of bonobo paleos perfectly.

“When does the enhancement start?”

“We should test it first. After all, it should be sufficient in two or three days. So, how about the Black Bass?”

“You want to use Black Bass for testing?”

“No way, you fool. Unfortunately, I can’t enhance Black Bass with my current skill. I was just asking whether you enhanced it yet.”

Bottleneck, while grumbling, was not overconfident about his skill. Although he had mastered the theory, his lack of experience was inevitable.

He definitely had exceptional talent and technical skills, and his experience was sure to pile up quickly. However, at this point, not even he dared to say he would enhance Black Bass.

“I haven’t enhanced it yet. Hmm… Considering it took slightly over two weeks to find the Cobalt Blue Python… I guess I will put up the expectation of three weeks before making a move for the Black Bass.”

“So we need to wait about 10 more days?”

“It seems so.”

Bottleneck looked up at Leeha, sensing his slightly downcast voice. However, the dwarf’s face did not show concern.


“Haha, that’s right! Lord, you should suffer a bit more!”

“Why are you talking so rudely? There are few humans in Middle Earth who have suffered as much as I have.”

“No, no! From my point of view, you have much more to go! Will you be attending the Juma City’s second wave defensive battle?”

“I have to, it should be starting soon.”

“Good, go and suffer a bit!”

Bottleneck spoke, playfully smacking Leeha’s back.

Listening to that dubious encouragement, Leeha just laughed.

“But, Bottleneck, your expectation will not come true.”

“What do you mean?”

“I won’t suffer.”

“Oh my! Toon has appeared in front of Juma City! Toon is here! The second wave starts now!

“Okay! I’ll be right there!”

“You’re full of confidence. Lord, you’re just relying on your Black Bass-”

“Haha, you will hear about how I didn’t suffer through other people’s mouths soon! I’m off!”

Leeha immediately activated the portal. Alexander and Veilypus’ predictions were, as expected, not wrong.

“Don’t die, lord.”

A moment later, as Leeha’s body disappeared with a swish, only Bottleneck was left, staring at the newly built Enhancement Forge with a bitter smile.

Around 500 meters from the city walls of Juma City.

Users had positioned themselves a little further than during the first wave.

“Wow… Look at the vibrating air.”


“From the moment Toon appeared, there’s no distance illusion. This distance from a big guy like that, and that roar, how are we going to deal with it?”

The users on the city walls quivered.

The precaution was the same as during the defense battle, but this time, defending weapons were deployed everywhere. NPCs operated these weapons, and numerous crossbowmen and archers were deployed to protect the surrounding area on the outer wall, all as part of a strategy to minimize the number of monsters that might advance. Leeha had just stepped toward the group of star grass users.

Just before the wave started, Kijung was giving various instructions to guild members.”The basic strategy is the same as last time. Ah, you weren’t here last time, were you?”

“Strategy? Do we need a strategy to block the waves?”

“Of course! Those creatures are quite strategic. They’re not as strong as Toon’s troops, but there are quite a few massive monsters among them. The primary targets are Cyclops, followed by Ogres and Trolls.”

“Ah, so you’re saying we should take down the DPS line first and then take care of the tank line.”

“Exactly.”

This strategy was different from the brutal onslaught approach.

The monster army led by Toon was meticulously planning on destroying Juma City completely, hence the users had to develop a counter-plan.

“But the question is whether they will follow the same strategy as before…”

As Kijung scratched his chin in thought, another user nearby slightly opened his mouth.

“Hehe, no need to worry about that”

“Biyemi, what does that mean?”

“I don’t have much to say right now, but what’s important is that we don’t die. Heh, that’s too obvious, isn’t it?”

Biyemi smirked ambiguously and grasped hisher weapon. Leeha had not had a significant conversation with Biyemi since coming to Juma City.

‘Come to think of it, how did he know about bonobo paleo? Does she know about the ”

“enhancement”

” as well?’

The colour of Biyemi’s weapon was unequivocally different from before, suggesting that some sort of enhancement had been applied to his weapon.


However, it was clear it wasn’t through the bonobo paleo. That’s because they didn’t react at all to the words Biyemi or lizardia.

These conflicting pieces of evidence made Leeha suspicious.

“Anyway, since you, Leeha, have no main weapon, please just offer support fire from behind me this time. You’ll still gain plenty of levels.”

“Does the extent of level increase depend on the magnitude of the action?”

“Well, it’s not been confirmed yet, but that seems to be the case. I’ve heard that users at about the same level as Kijung gained about one level.”

This was intriguing information for the user ranked in the top 10.

Kijung, fitting of Byulcho’s Guild Master status, had performed impressively and thus earned much more experience than other users of the same level.

“Just like the mission’s ‘completion’, Middle Earth seems to be rating each individual.”

“Hehehe, that’s the point……

“Leeha, you’re scheming again! It’s dangerous; just stay behind me!”

“Please do. There’s no one to protect you, Leeha, if I’m not there. Just stick close behind Kijung. Got it?”

As Leeha grinned inexplicably, Gi-Kijung and Bobae looked anxious. But their words didn’t get to Leeha.

“Let’s see how it goes. I’ll be careful. Once this wave is over-”

Here it comes!

“-we’ll see how much my level has increased.”

Just as someone yelled out, the ground started to shake.

The gigantic monsters and the large monster army, following Toon’s command, were rushing to trample Juma City.

* * *

Bobae: It’s starting! I’ll get in touch later, Nara-ssi!

Nara: Yeah, take care!

Despite enthusiastically cheering for Bobae, Shin Nara’s face was hardened.

Hearing that Leeha would be attending this second monster wave, she desperately wanted to participate.

‘I’m still in Hong Kong, and I haven’t been able to see him… I wonder if he remembers our date. He hardly whispers to me either.’

In Middle Earth, Leeha’s focus is unparalleled.

However, when it comes to relationship matters, the complete opposite is true. Leeha was so engrossed in his Middle Earth play that he didn’t pay attention to others, hence she couldn’t help but feel annoyed.

‘So I was definitely going to go today… I was determined to participate!’

Because of that person!

Feeling Shin Nara’s gaze, perhaps, lotzak, who had been standing next to the king, visibly flinched. It was due today for him to reconsider the issue that she had brought up several times but had been consistently turned down.

“Right now! Juma City is currently facing a fierce onslaught from monsters, including Toon. To protect our citizens, I firmly believe that it’s essential to dispatch at least one knights’ squadron and establish a branch of the Sacred Knights. I sincerely request once again that you all reconsider.”

Speaking to all NPCs sitting around the round table, her eyes were particularly focused on Rotzak. As a member of the ‘Capital Defense Knights’, which was nominally established as the Sacred Knights, she wasn’t allowed to leave the capital without special reasons, making her burning with frustration.”Hmm, well… Of course, I understand Dame Shin’s words, but, it’s not something that can be easily decided, is it?”

“Indeed. It’s difficult to speak rashly to His Majesty the King. The Knight Order’s fundamental function is regional defense, and if we send over the current continent’s Knight Order? Those ignorant fools from Minis or Klaban, who knows what kind of uproar they would cause.”

“True, correct, correct.”

“You have a point.”

The noble NPCs were wiping their sweat while avoiding Shin’s gaze. Deciding on dispatching the Knight Order should not be something to be announced directly to the king. The Knight Order, which was initially established city by city, or by castle, needs to coordinate with the lord of the respective city or castle. Although the king’s direct order is possible, if resistance grows severe, the Knight Order of Sacred and Shin himself may face problems. So far, Shin Nara had been holding back her worries about that part.

He looked at the noble NPCs with contemptuous eyes.

“Are you worried that the number of knights to protect your ‘cities’ might decrease? I might be taking away the people to guard your properties?”

“How absurd!”

“Who am I for you to accuse me of such!”

Her sharp criticisms were enough to ignite the nobles’ anger. It was Lot who calmed down the NPCs on the verge of eruption.

“Dame. Don’t forget that you are attending this conference as a knight.”

“I haven’t forgotten, chief Mage. If you would also remember how many times I’ve requested the dispatch of the Mage Division. Will you disagree again for the same reason as last time? We heard it so many times that we can recite it, so don’t bother if you’re going to say the same thing again.”

He stared straight at Rotzak. Below one representative, there was Lot, the Chief Mage and the king’s wisdom pocket. No noble NPC took his words lightly.

For such Lot, shin was an even more annoying existence than a hundred weak-noble NPCs.

Rotzak said, “I disagree. I am in favor.”

His dissenting voice quietly blended into the conference room. Everyone except Lot was surprised, showing a blank expression for a moment.

“Rotzak?”

“What did you say?”

“Do you agree? With dispatching the Mage Division?” even Shin couldn’t believe it and had to ask again.

This was the sixth time she had initiated such a meeting since the new continent was opened. That same person, who had consistently disagreed for the same reason for the past six times, was suddenly agreeing?

However, lot seemed too calm. He didn’t agree to dispatch the Mage Division.

“I think it is the best time to dispatch the Knight Order, allocate a small fraction of the Sacred Squad, and dispatch a small Mage Division.”

“To the new continent… The place Rotzak is referring to… you mean, to dispatch to Juma City?”

“That’s right. No matter how I think about it, now seems like the perfect time. Isn’t the highest priority to secure Juma City now? If it’s destroyed, we lose a foothold in the new continent. During that time, tensions will rise here on the Lope continent, and the possibility of us being swept up into another war will increase. Even when we think about preventing this, it seems better for each country to disperse its power to the Lope continent and Erika continent.”

(To be continued…)
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What if Juma City were destroyed and the Mana Relay Tower disappeared?

Once again, all forces would gather in the Old Continent. If a container remains unchanged but the contents keep filling up, it’ll eventually overflow.

Right now, lotzak’s words are exactly that prediction.

However, Shin Nara abruptly interrupted.

“Weren’t you always against that, lotzak! But why would you suddenly support such a cause…

” … I am a Mage Squad’s Chief who always puts national interest first. Maybe that’s a strange sight to you, dean Shin?”

“That’s not it…”

Something seemed off.

Shin Nara could sense a disturbing scent as she watched Rotzak sway his head in denial.

The man who used to be against her, suddenly changing his stance?

‘Something’s fishy.’

The problem was that she still couldn’t figure out what it could be. Though the King often spoke sternly to Rotzak as if to keep him in check, ultimately, he mostly approved Rotzak’s proposals.

‘What on earth is he thinking?’

Nevertheless, this was the opinion Shin Nara strongly held.

In other words, the suspicion about Rotzak’s support alone wouldn’t be enough to reject the idea.

“Then, shall we move on to the agenda for the selection of the Knights division and the distribution of Sacred Knights’ troops, and also for dispatching our ‘key players’ from the Mage Squad?”

Rotzak slowly scanned the room. The meetings led by the Mage Squad’s Chief proceeded quickly and clearly.

‘At this rate, we’ll be able to operate in New Continent before the third wave hits. But…

Caught between joy and anxiety, Shin Nara couldn’t help but feel an unusual sensation.


“First Yellow Dragon Squad, assemble! Prepare for the Three Hundred River Dragon Formation!”

Roar-!

At Pei Wu’s loud cry, the guild members of Yellow Dragon swiftly mobilized.

From a bird’s eye view, you could see three hundred guild members forming a specific formation in a matter of seconds.

“Let’s block their assault first! First attack!”

“Kwaahaaah-!”

The beast charging at them, attempting to crunch the users with its teeth, was a wild animal similar to a hyena.

The fact that it was about the size of a mid-size SUV was surprising, but the users who had already experienced the first wave responded calmly.

And the users who hadn’t experienced the first wave? Most of them were just dumbfounded.

“Woah, damn! How can a dog be so big?!”

The most necessary thing to deal with these creatures, which are more aggressive than any monster in the Old Continent, was not defense or attack power, but ‘courage’.

『Explosion Arrow』!”

Kwaaaah—!

Bobae’s exploding arrow was quickly aimed at the advancing monsters.

As the ground suddenly collapsed and the terrain destabilized, the monsters’ maneuverability significantly decreased.

“Oh, Bobae! You know how to fight! You’re pretty much born to fight!”

“Stop it, Leeha-ssi!”

As Leeha hastily pulled out her musket-pistol, Kijung raised his shield and stepped forward.

“Don’t think of it as a dog! Stay behind me-”

Grrr, Grrrr,


『Myong Myong!』

“First, hide your bodies-”

Grrr, Grrrr,

『Meeoowww』

“Kaheng!”Kijung quickly issued instructions to Leeha amid the chaos, but none of his words reached Leeha’s ears due to the incessant gunfire and indistinguishable noises.

The noise came to a stop, and before them lay a hyena the size of a medium SUV motionless on the ground.

“…… Hyung?”

“Huh? What did you say?”

Kijung locked eyes with Leeha, who remained expressionless, his-nimble hands moving deftly and flawlessly between his bag and his musket-pistol.

“That…that rifle! Isn’t it the one that used to take forever to reload?”

“Ah, this one? Hehehe… You’re right. It used to be like that.”

Leeha was fully enjoying his 100% synchronization. The exact quantity of gunpowder to use, where the muzzle to insert the bullet was located, whether the pellets were appropriately embedded deep enough. He no longer needed to visually confirm any of these details.

Due to his perfectly revived senses, coupled with the fine-tuned coordination of his hands and eyes, Leeha could feel everything with his fingertips.

‘Do top fishermen know the size and species of the fish they’ve caught by the feel of its bite?’

Would it be wrong to say that his current senses were almost similar?

Leeha’s confidence was soaring through the roof.

“A single hyena went down with four pistol shots and two Jellypong attacks. Kijung, I’m going first!”

“Hyu-Hyung! Where are you going?!”

Even as Kijung tried to hold him back, there was no stopping Leeha, who was now not just the successor of 『Bullseye』 but also 『Rapid Fire』.

“This Kidd, he’s been living in a world like this all along?!”


Taaaaang, taaaaang-!

He fired two grapeshot rounds, successfully stopping the charging ogre in its tracks.

And what came next?

“Jellypong! 『Battle Mode: Agility』!”

『Roarrrrr-!』

Jellypong, who had been shielded by Leeha’s vest, popped out and quickly launched an assault.

The twelve elongated hands of Jellypong transformed into scaly sharp spears, piercing through the ogre’s limbs which were slowed, and in that same instant, the reloaded two shots of Leeha’s pistol left holes in the ogre’s forehead and neck.

“Come back!”

『Roar!』

Swish-!

Through the efficient interchange of grapeshot and bullets for barricading and penetrating power, coupled with the reliable shield and attack tool that Jellypong was.

“Hahaha, this is fun! This is really the bee’s knees! 『Summon: Partner』!”

Whoaaaiiii—–!

And adding Blaugrunn’s magic on top of that?

“Ha, ha, Leeha?! I was in the middle of reading a book just now!”

“Now isn’t the time for books! Don’t go shifting into dragon, stay as you are, and let’s sync up! And no, syncing up does not mean kissing, you get that right?”

“Sigh, you suddenly call me and crack jokes like that, it really kills my motivation.”

Closing his book, Blaugrunn slipped it into his chest pocket and swiftly began to cast her spell.

Indeed, the one entity who knew what Leeha wanted the most was the bronze dragon, Blaugrunn.

『Haste』

A green light shimmered from both Blaugrunn and Leeha’s bodies.

Having experienced buffs that increase health or defense, this was Leeha’s first experience with a buff related to speed.

“It’s insane! Ahahaha, this is cool!”

“You’re just faster, it doesn’t decrease any damage taken, so be careful.”

“Sure thing! I’ll be careful!”

Meanwhile, the grapeshot spread around was quite effective.

Though it was just one shot, it was enough to interrupt the rhythm of the monsters preparing to attack.

It made the monsters pause as if momentarily stunned!

For users who had to fight tooth and nail against each monster, it was as good as a cheat code.

“Let’s do this, let’s go, go!”

“Sheesh, there’s no stopping you, I swear.”

Blaugrunn clung tightly to his high-strung partner, swept along as if by a runaway train.

Monsters had become more diverse and slightly stronger than in the 11th Wave, but the surrounding players found them easier to handle than before.

There came the second wave, sprinting from a distance! While smaller than Toon, these giant monsters that were otherwise unseen in the old continent naturally gravitated towards Leeha.

“Boom!”

“It’s Giga-Phant! Remember how last time a single one of them shattered our defences!”

“Hey! This time three Giga-Phants are coming!”

“Fall back!”

If what came before were mid-sized SUVs, this time it was elephants larger than 25-tonne dump trucks. Leeha was unafraid, even as three Giga-Phants galloped in full throttle, each brandishing six tusks.

“Come on, come on, bring it on!”

“Leeha, are you out of your mind?”

“Crazy? In this type of battle, gaining the initial momentum is vital.”

“-Sigh. Understood. There’s no stopping you, Leeha.”

Blaugrunn gave up his attempt to grab Leeha’s sleeve and shook his head. He wouldn’t be able to stop him anyway, as Leeha’s argument made sense.

“Do you think you’re the only one with a beast? 《Soul Link》!”

About 500 meters in front of the perimeter wall of Juma City, an explosive red flare intertwined with yellow burst forth.

“Argh!? What’s this?”

“It’s an explosion! Someone just used an explosion skill here!”

“So bright! What kind of skill effect is this strong?”

Players scrambled to shield their eyes from the blinding light. Leeha had used the Soul Link skill, known for its strong visual effects, but now it was even more intense.

“Haha, quite a spectacle!”

『A Soul Link skill has been activated.』 『Your soulmate will be summoned for 60 minutes.』

『Soulmate’s current level is 66.』

『Boosted to 125% of user level.』

『The current level of the enhanced soulmate is 330.』

Leeha looked over the notification message. He felt the power coursing through him.

‘Hehe! I’ve Koma! Koma jumped into the Master stage. At an overwhelming 330 level! Even Toon should be vulnerable to this power!’

Not only had his level drastically increased, but his summoning time had also doubled. This allowed him to join forces with Koma for a full hour.

Koma was now four times stronger than before, and his summoning time had doubled from 30 minutes to an hour, granting Leeha an incredible amount of power.

“Considering how challenging it was to obtain the 『Fire Flower』, this level of effect is expected! Right, Koma?!”

Grr, Grr-!

In appearance, Koma was no different from before.

A giant bear with deep fur was blowing his nostrils at Leeha.

The reason Koma still looked unchanged was that he hadn’t used any skills yet. Leeha had yet to command him.

“Turn into a Fire Bear! Crush all those approaching baby elephants!”

Roar!

Koma exploded into flames. He had once turned into a ‘Fire Bear’ with the help of the intermediate Fire Spirit, salamander.

But now?

With the help of the high-level Fire Spirit, ignis, Koma was no longer the old Fire Bear.

Roar-!

Koma’s enormous roar echoed throughout the surroundings.

Even players who were busy fighting monsters were startled enough to look around. And the alarming sight wasn’t just about the roar.

Creak, creak-!

Koma’s flesh started to transform amid eerie sounds. It was only natural for all eyes to shoot towards this change.

“What… what is that?”

“Has a giant monster already infiltrated?”

“No way, that just popped out of nowhere! It… popped out? A summon?”

“I’ve never seen such a summon! Is it a spirit?”

What first caught the eye was the gigantic size! Although Koma had been sufficiently large to carry Leeha before, this transformation made him even bigger.

To hold Ignis, it was not enough to have strong resistance to fire alone. It was imperative to have a robust body too. This reinforcement was possible thanks to the Fire Spirit King, ifrit.

Alongside turning gigantic, Koma was also engulfed in intense flames.

The fiery red flames wrapped around him, eventually turning yellow.

“I feel like I’ve seen that in an animated series where they collect dragon balls to make a wish!?”

“Saiyan transformation…”

“Shush!”

With the appearance reminiscent of a character from a specific animated series, Koma was emitting tremendous impact with yellow flames.

“Isn’t that… a beast-human?”

Becoming much bigger and shrouded in unnatural flames, ‘Koma’ was impressively standing on two feet.

Its skeletal and muscular system had transformed into a humanoid structure. Thus, Koma was no longer a ‘bear’.

It looked like a complete Beastman, able to use its front paws as hands and stand on two feet.

“I’ve only seen it twice before, but I still can’t get used to it.”

“Me too. Where did that unsophisticated bear who liked eating and napping go?”

“Grr?”

At Blaugrunn’s sigh, the newly reborn ‘Koma’ let out a low growl.

The one responsible for such a fantastical transformation was indeed the Fire Spirit King, ifrit.

‘Who knew he would do such an absurd thing.’

(To be continued…)
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『You have completed the “Fight Fire with Fire” quest.』

As soon as the quest notification appeared, ifrit swung her hand into thin air. Before her, ‘Koma’ and Ignis appeared together.

“Kiddo, why did you summon us again? Couldn’t you send the message in the spirit world?”

『Adding a snide comment every time! Just wait there, ignis!』

“Say what you want, but I won’t fit into that bear-like body of yours.”

Ignis grumbled, spitting out saliva through his clenched teeth.

The vein popped on Ifrit’s forehead, making Leeha shudder at the sight.

– They really are like oil and water.

– I’ve heard about them from the Lord… but it seems to be worse than I thought.

Leeha suddenly remembered Bahamut’s words about the spirits.

Despite many discussions, Bahamut had scarcely mentioned Ifrit’s name.

‘Do the spirit kings of water, wind, and earth tolerate some degree of mischief?’

What about the dignified Poseidon he had seen in person?

The top-grade spirits of wind and earth had considerable dignity as well.

But even the Fire Spirit King in front of him, and the high-ranking spirit Ignis, were like this… Even the mighty Bahamut couldn’t play tricks in the fire spirit world.

“Grrrrr”

『Alright, alright, were you worried? Here, our cute bear. Eat this.』

Ifrit held out a “Fire Flower” to Koma. However, Koma simply shook his head and looked at Leeha.

“Grrrr”


『Eat it already!』

“Grrrr”

Koma stubbornly closed his mouth and shook his head.

Seeing the huge bear, four times smaller than Ifrit, acting cute and behaving like a child throwing a tantrum over food, everyone looked puzzled. Then, a troubling thought crossed Leeha’s mind.

“Ah! Don’t tell me you not eating is because it doesn’t taste good?”

“Grrr! Grrr!”

Clap! Clap!

Koma clapped with his thick paws. Compared to the delicious food that Leeha made him, the Fire Flower was just a common plant. It was only natural that Koma didn’t find it appetizing.

‘What kind of NPC animal…’

Leeha recalled what Ifrit had said about the trouble she had with Koma in the spirit realm.

Could over-spoiling his palate lead to this kind of issue?

“Koma, just eat it for now. Once you eat it and get re-summoned, I’ll make you something delicious again.”

“Grr?”

As Koma tilted his head again, Leeha started to lose his patience.

He climbed onto Koma’s body, taking the Fire Flower from Ifrit’s hand.

“Don’t pretend that you don’t understand! Quick, eat! Eat!”

『Don’t force feed him-』

“Grrr- Grrrrr”

“Eat it, you bear!”

“But what if the bear closes its mouth and your arm gets chopped off!”


“Don’t worry! Wouldn’t Koma and I be soul mates? He wouldn’t eat my arm!”

Leeha tickled Koma’s cheeks and forcefully opened its mouth, reaching into it with the hand holding the Fire Flower.

This abrupt action turned Blaugrunn’s complexion a slightly pale blue.

As Leeha couldn’t move, Koma made a slight crunching sound as it chewed for a while.

“Grrr- Gulp!”

“He ate it!” 『He ate it!』

Leeha and Ifrit simultaneously cheered.

As Ifrit waved her arm, Leeha was immediately thrown off of Koma.

『Well done, human!』

“Phew, it’s finally done, isn’t it?”

『No! It’s just getting started.』

“What?”

Whirrrrrrrrrr———–

Fire suddenly engulfed Koma’s body. The creature flinched from the new flame, different from anything before. Ignis, who had been trailing behind the youngster, could no longer be seen.

“Whoaaaaa-”

“Bear seems to be in pain, y’know……?”

“Ifrit-nim!”

『Shut up and wait, human! I’ll reward you as much as you suffered!』

Ifrit promptly controlled the flames.

The wildly darting flames became gradually purer.


The color also slowly stabilized from blazing red to orange, and then to yellow.

“That’s intense heat.”

“So this is what quiet burning feels like.”

Both nervous Blaugrunn and Leeha felt a sense of calm. Finally, when Ifrit extended his hand again, the yellow flame seemed to gently wrap around the small creature’s entire body.

『Ignis. Become one with the contractor in your true form.』

That was the last word. Grggrgrgr, as the lad began to transform, another notification window appeared in front of Leeha.

『The grade of the skill-Soul Link has increased.』

『Your intimacy with the fire spirit has increased by 20%.』

* * *

“That’s what uniting as one means! Are you ready, Koma?”

“Grrrr.”

“Blaugrunn-ssi! Buff him up! Let’s pump up our Koma!”

“Understood. 『Haste』, 『Strength』, 『Hardness』.”

Speed, strength, and hardness.

Three buff spells were cast in an instant. During this short interval, Leeha had also reloaded his two pistols.

Once the preparations were complete, there was no hesitation left in him.

“Koma! Your targets are those three chunky elephants! Feeling confident?”

“Grrrrrr…”

Koma assumed a low stance.

Was this what it would look like if there were werewolves? However, Koma, whose original form was a bear, boasted a more robust form than a werewolf.

Leeha shouted excitedly, not in fear but in pure thrill, towards Koma and Blaugrunn.

“Kill them all——

“Grrraaaaaaaa!”

“In a battlefield, excitement is a drug that invites death! Go slow, Leeha!”

Koma jumped out faster than the Bobae’s arrow. Following her, Leeha fired his pistols at the foes, and Blaugrunn backed them up with magic from behind.

The attack of the three Giga-Phants was so powerful that it could easily lead hundreds of users to their deaths. However, their inability to coordinate their attacks was a clear weakness.

Leeha exploited this weakness, and when Blaugrunn cast his 『Dig』 spell to create a pit, their movements faltered.

Simultaneously, Leeha’s lead shots drilled into the eyes of their staggering enemies.

A small coordinated move against the Giga-Phants, but a noteworthy one to halt their charge.

It made such a strong impression that it was indelibly etched in the minds of all the users who came to fend off the second wave of Zugma City!

Yet, the 『Leeha Squad』 was not done.

Their power exceeded Blaugrunn’s magic and Leeha’s perfect close-range sniping skills. What truly amazed the users was the arrival of the 『Soul』, who was bigger than Igor, stronger than Igor, and more brutal than Igor.

“Graaaaahaha!”

Boom!

Koma, who held Ignis within his body and spouted flames, looked as though he himself had formed a protective shield.

The sudden heat caught the Giga-Phants off guard, and although they wildly swung their trunks, they were no match for Koma, enhanced with buffs.

Nimbly dodging their flailing trunks, Koma performed a jump on their faces, concentrated the heat wrapped around his body to the tips of his hands, and scorched the elephants’ eyes completely.

Boom! Whoosh!?

“Grrr, grrrrr…”

Despite being tossed around by the thrashing giants, Koma skillfully landed on another Giga-Phant nearby, stabbing his hand into its hide.

Then he started to run swiftly from the back towards the buttocks.

“What the…?”

“Is he tearing the hide with his hands?”

The average users gathered here couldn’t even pierce through the Giga-Phant’s skin despite using their strongest cutting skills. But, for Koma who reached master level and had the power of Ignis, this was simply child’s play.

After mangling the face of one, sprinting as though pulling out the vertebral bone of another, Koma charged straight towards the next Giga-Phant.

Sensing something hot approaching despite being blindfolded from Leeha’s sniping, the Giga-Phant wildly waved its six sharp tusks.

“Grraaaaaaa!”

“Boom! Boom!”

The kid did not dodge.

Rather, he ‘resisted’ the hit from the elephant, which was more than 30 times his size, flaunting his presence even more.

“That’s impossible!”

“He’s not a dragon, how can he block that with his hands!”

“Nice, Koma, nice!”

Contrary to the astonishment of the other users, a single cheer reached Komas ears. The encouragements that weren’t Darhani’s made Koma muster his strength.

“Grrrrrrr…!”

Boom!

For a moment, a sound echoed, letting the users fighting in the defense of Zugma City hear a strange noise.

It was a deafening noise, similar to that of a rotten tooth being pulled out at a dentist.

The Giga-Phant’s scream was drowned out by the blood gushing out of the place where a tusk had been pulled out.

Boom————–

Despite furiously rampaging from getting a tusk pulled out without anesthesia, the Giga-Phant was no match for Koma.

Koma, who carried the flame of Ignis all over his body, moving it to the part he wanted to attack and strengthen, quickly accumulated that flame at his fingertips and pierced a hole in the Giga-Phant’s leg. Then, he moved that flame to his foot and ran up the Giga-Phant’s body, creating a large wound. The Giga-Phant tried to fend off the attack from behind by writhing its entire body, but couldn’t shake off Koma’s sharp claws.

“How marvelous… Even with the combined power of Peiwu-ssi and Tale-ssi, such movement – or could it be Nara-ssi, or even more?”

The agility, destructiveness, and even the sharpness, a triple threat demonstrated by the new kid, surprised even Leeha.

“Graaaaaaaa ——!”

When the flame once again burst from Koma’s fingertips, the last Giga-Phant was soon reduced to ashes.

Groan…

The fallen Giga-Phant stirred up a huge cloud of dust.

Beyond the cloudy visibility, the imposing silhouette of Koma standing next to the three gigantic corpses caught the eyes of the users.

Often, when people are too astounded, they can’t even utter words of surprise.

Curiosity towards this unknown specimen had already disappeared.

The only thing left on the users’ faces was a complex expression mixed with awe and fear.

『Level Up.』

A radiant glow emanated from Leeha’s body. Only he held back the laughter while watching Koma’s exploits, leaving Blaugrunn with a puzzled expression.

“Isn’t he too strong after all?”

“Well, his level is 330. It’s natural! He may even be higher than Alexander!”

Of course, the level and even the rank of the contract spirit has increased.

Since breaking through the level 300 barrier was unprecedented for a summon(?), demonstrating such a level of power was the expected outcome.

Of course, this still wasn’t the answer that Blaugrunn wanted to hear.

“While the body of the bear was somewhat of a solid foundation…it’s not entirely his power that made him that strong.”

“Huh? What? Oh, right!? Yes! That’s right! Without Blaugrunn-ssi’s buff, he couldn’t have become like that.”

Leeha immediately recognized what was going on in Blaugrunn’s mind and promptly patted him on the back.

Even though it was almost like receiving a deep bow, being praised was enough to soften the young man’s heart.

“If I transform, I might draw more attention than that bear… but since it’s your request, Leeha, I’ll stay as I am.”

“Yeah, yeah. That’s correct. If he stands out too much, it would rather be a problem for me. Please hold back for a while.”

“Tsk. Alright. Since it’s your request, Leeha, I have no choice.”

Only after being treated(?) did Blaugrunn’s face return to its usual state.

While Leeha and Blaugrunn were chatting, Koma brushed off the dust and trotted towards them.

His return to them was nothing less than a victorious march.

Faces filled with awe and fear turned into thrill and cheer.

(To be continued…)
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“Wooooow——————!”

“Biiiiiig——————!”

“A new ranker is on the rise! No, a new profession?! A new outsider?!”

“What does it matter! What is important is that he is insanely cool!”

Koma staggered momentarily under the users’ cheers but he did not stop walking towards the place with monsters.

“Grrrr.”

“You have worked hard, Koma.”

Whether it was extracting the tusk of the Gigaphant or revealing the spine, a large amount of blood would have spilled. However, Koma’s body was clean.

That was possible due to Ignis’s powerful flame. The flame was strong enough to evaporate all the blood before it even touched the body.

“Grrrrrr.”

“Huh? Why are you nudging your head towards me?”

The enlarged creature tilted its body drastically and nudged its head towards him. He briefly flinched at the strange behavior.

Blaugrunn who was watching this chuckled and whispered to him.

‘Boss! This, this!’

‘Ah!’

When he raised his hand slowly, ignis’s flame disappeared completely.

Even without doing that, he wouldn’t have felt the heat because his fire resistance was already over 100%. However, it was a thoughtful gesture from the creature.

“You did a good job.”

To be more precise, it was a considerate action for him who was combing it’s fur. The creature felt every single stroke he applied to its fur with intense delight. With a body that was huge and muscular like a human, the creature was nevertheless still his ‘little one’.


The creature, as large and as human as a bear, drooled while he stroked its fur some more, after which he lightened the atmosphere.

“Is it not over yet?”

“Rrrrr.”

“Right. There are still countless enemies.”

Despite having defeated three Gigaphants and having shown his remarkable strength, it was only a very small part of the entire monster wave. Despite this, there is only one reason why he couldn’t stop laughing.

‘If I gained a level defeating three beasts, how many levels will I gain in the middle or end of this ordeal?’

The hope for his spectacular performance. That was what made him jump with joy.

“Let’s go clean up! Jellypong, switch to ‘Combat Mode: Agility!”

『Myong! Myong!』

The coalition, ‘Leeha Squad’, which includes Jellypong, wreaked havoc on the second wave of monster onslaught.

“Ummm, as expected. What trick are you playing this time?”

“It’s dangerous to reveal oneself too much, oka-san.”

“It’s okay, Sasuke. Leeha won’t be able to see us from here and even a dragon won’t be able to recognize me here. Am I right, Toon?”

『Quiet.』

“I don’t know what mana covers me, but….. I’ll take it positively. Uhuh.”

Chiyou, the one sitting on Toon’s foot, lifted her head and winked. Toon did not look at her. While they were quite a distance from Juma City, without special measures, Chiyou would never reveal herself.

‘The subject of caution is not just Leeha.

‘

Her ‘map’ and eyes accurately captured the Gold Dragons soaring in the sky.

Being forced to look at Leeha and sensing the hint of mana, Bailephus might soon find out that Toon is nearby.


‘And Toon wouldn’t possibly not know that.’

But what did it mean that he accepted her invitation?

Like Bluebeard who always roams around without spilling a hint of mana, there’s a technique for Toon to not be 100% recognized by Bailephus.

“He is always cheap, no matter when. When did he get such a pet-”

“No, we knew it too. He already had a Bronze Dragon, there was no way he could acquire another new pet. That one probably is not the fire bear we faced before.”

“The shape is too different. If it were the fire bear from the past–”

“Could it be a spirit? Maybe we should ask Prea about it.”

Chiyou spoke with a cheery voice as if she had found an amusing spectacle. Sasuke remained silent.

“There are monsters in close combat…. There are dragons and slimes that are waiting for an ambush, and if we try a long-distance snipe, it turns out he himself is an excellent sniper. How exactly are we supposed to capture him? Is there any way, Sasuke?”

“With our current strength… It seems impossible unless we overpower him.”

“That’s what everyone would say. Question is how to acquire this ‘overwhelming power’. Can there be anyone stronger and who can see further than Leeha?”

Chiyou’s voice scolded Sasuke, yet she was not looking at him.

She lifted her head toward Toon, her face clearly visible.

“I think our Toon-nim would know about it.”

『Our Toon-nim?』

“Oh, there you go again. I’m sure you already know what I’m talking about. I mean ‘those people’.”

Toon’s eyes, which had been glaring at Juma City, flickered swiftly. His pupils, wider than Chiyou’s, writhed fiercely.

“Can’t you persuade those people, Toon? If not, how about asking the Count-”

『Are you suggesting I bother the Count just to capture that one man?』

“Well, it’s not as easy as it seems. Just one ‘that man’ managed to damage your beautiful eyebrows-”


『Shut up.』

“Y-Yes!”

Chiyou flirtatiously snuggled up to Toon’s leg.

It was something that Sasuke completely disagreed with, but there was nothing he could do. He had already received orders from Chiyou to ‘stay still no matter what happens’.

‘Phew, I was talking about Bluebeard and I was afraid he’d have a fit. So it’s okay as long as I don’t mention his name?’

From her conversation with Toon just now, she has gathered a few more pieces of information.

The subtle humiliation was well worth it, as the gain was much greater.

‘Should I assume he has a strained relationship with those musketeers who I wrongly suspected to be Leeha? They’re clearly not his subordinates. No, it feels more like… business partners?’

What if they were actually Le’s subordinates?

Toon would not have used the phrase ‘bothering the Count’. After all, he only needs to relay the order.

‘Bothers the Count? Hmm, are those musketeers on almost the same level as Bluebeard?’

Their existence in itself raised such suspicions.

Musketeers whose identities remained hidden even from Chiyou’s vast information network.

They couldn’t possibly be considered mere monsters. Besides, during the total attack on the Demon’s base, none of the screenshots or videos recorded by the users revealed their identities, let alone their whereabouts ever since Toon’s complete revival.

Even mobilizing all the Shinobigumi forces on the old continent, and utilizing all the spies around the New Continent’s Juma City, their identity remained elusive.

At this point, the only thing Chiyou could confirm was that they were not just one person.

Chiyou, watching Toon’s reaction, opened her mouth again.

“But look at his actions. If we can’t kill that man, it might disrupt your ‘plan’, Toon. Shouldn’t we have collected at least 7,000 souls from today’s wave? We can create waves any time, but won’t it be troublesome if we continue like this? Surely, we’re not in a position to take our time.”

Toon’s angry expression softened a bit at her sincerely worried voice.

We can’t understand what an NPC thinks but Chiyou saw Toon’s head moving slightly left and right.

『No. Even so, they can’t. Not until there is someone who can fully control them…』His words carried the slight unease of the dinosaur.

Chiyou: “Sasuke.”

Sasuke:”Yes, mr. Oka.”

Chiyou: “Go to the old continent.”

Sasuke: “What?”

And with that, Chiyou realized what was most important at that moment. Information about Leeha was just one of many branches. But at that moment, a connection was completely made in her mind.

Chiyou: It’s almost impossible to follow Luger and Kidd now, our only saving grace is few.

Sasuke: Who…?

Chiyou: Fibiel’s Browless.

‘Leeha. Kidd. Luger… Three. And two unknown NPC entities and Fibiel’s Browless… Three.’

They all use ‘guns’.

It’s no mere coincidence that a very rare profession in Middle Earth coincides in number.

‘Something is there.’

It was not a simple instinct.

The ‘something’ that had been investigated for Leeha’s strategy from the past touched Chiyou’s nerves, converging with Toon’s words now.

The leader of the Shinobigumi’s intuition was still alive.

Chiyou: Ah! While I’m at it, I’ll drop by to see the current situation there, scout people we requested from Yamato…

Sasuke: You can entrust it to me.

Toon didn’t move until all the monsters of the wave were cleaned up.

Chiyou and Sasuke spent a long time observing the trends and growth of the users.

It was a long way off, but the distance of the skill effect was noticeable, so it wasn’t hard to compare with all the existing information.

“Ram Hwajung’s gotten a lot stronger. The range of attack of the Blizzard, and that ‘Ice Age’ skill is terrifying.”

“It is said that the Whahong is pushing forward radically. There are many who say that Shin Nara is already within reach, and it will surpass Petyr in a short time.”

“Speaking of which, where’s that insane clown?”

“Sor, sorry, we haven’t found him yet.”

“Well, it’s alright. He must be targeting something like assassination of the king while the new continent is bustling.”

After being persistent with the observation for about three hours, all the wave monsters were finally cleared up.

The front of Juma’s city was glowing bright like the bulbs of a night market.

* * * “We managed to stop it!”

“Great work!”

“Wow, it was tougher this time! An obvious second wave!”

Enjoying the shimmering light from their bodies, the users shouted out the cheers of victory. Despite the great performance of Leeha, the number of victims was almost the same as the first wave.

This meant that if they hadn’t taken care of at least three Gigapunt, the number of victims would have far exceeded those of the first wave.

Unknowingly(?), Leeha, who saved a large number of users, didn’t have time to think about it.

“Ugh, it’s dazzling!”

“How low level must it be to still be leveling up?!”

“I’m sorry, um, we’re sorry! Our Leeha tends to be a bit like that.”

Because he was Leeha of the long effect to the extent that the users had to cover their eyes.

Blaugrunn, who was next to Leeha, was nodding and saying hello to the surroundings, but even that didn’t properly reach Leeha’s ears.

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

“Insane… 7 levels and 83% for a one-day event?”

You’ve raised 7 levels in a day? Is this for real?

Leeha, who was treated as low level among the users of the new continent, was a respectable level 200 in his own way. It was natural for Leeha to look at the character window and smirk.

‘The news that the 300-level limit had been lifted and the level-up-only hunting grounds were scattered all over the new continent was good-‘

This event boasted better efficiency than putting all those hunting grounds together, so Leeha could only think of it as a god-given opportunity for his lacking levels.

“Heh heh, with that look on your face, I bet you’ve gotten about 10 levels, haven’t you?”

“Uh, Kijung!”

The one who came to Leeha, who was blankly looking at his character window, was the members of Byulcho.

Kijung, Tale, Bobae, Hyein, and even Biyemi who warned Leeha not to die. Basically, they managed to power up again on a guild level with all members surviving.

“No matter who Leeha is, ten is too much. He’s not that low level.”

“Haha, I think it’s possible. It was surprising how much of a low-level he was when he was traveling to the new continent at not even 200.”

“…I am usually told that I am quite strong, but strangely when Bobae and Hyein look at me-”

『Ahhh– Ahhh———!』

“Huh?!”

What cut through the jesting among them was a great outcry. Toon’s cry that was clearly heard even from a distance was enough to kill the spirits of the excited users.

(To be continued…)
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“What is this…?

“Ah, haven’t you experienced this before? It happened last time too. Is it barking in frustration because the wave failed? Is it embarrassed?”

The users who had experienced this situation before were relatively calm.

Nevertheless, Leeha was instinctively able to feel it. The disappearance of users’ bodies as soon as Toon roared.

And the gaze of Biyemi, who stared at Toon as soon as the bodies disappeared and her faint smile.

“I suspect it’s just an effect. Maybe the server is quickly removing the bodies to prevent traffic from overloading.”

“Hyun’s point does make sense, but if that was the case, shouldn’t it have been the same outside the capital during the National War?”

While Hyun and Bobae had a logical and valid discussion, all questions weren’t entirely resolved.

Seeing the guild members voicing out their various opinions, Biyemi gave a radiant smile.

“Hehe, we’ll know in time. The creators of Middle Earth don’t create monsters in vain.”

Leeha gave a slight nod, revealing a strange expression at lizardia’s words.

He speculated that Biyemi might have some piece of information, and this thought crossed his mind.

‘What is he thinking?… I guess my only option is to trust.’

Though Biyemi had always had a lot to hide, as was the case during the bonobo paleo incident, Leeha didn’t doubt him. He had always been secretive from the beginning. And now that she was a full member of Byulcho, there was no advantage to his betraying Byulcho and Leeha. Biyemi met Leeha’s eyes and gave him a peculiar look, but Leeha didn’t ask any further questions. Right now, he had something else that needed clarifying.

“By the way… I think most of you probably didn’t notice.”

“Huh? Notice what?”

When his sudden curiosity piqued, the attention of all Byulcho users was focused on Leeha.

Leeha received their attention and turned his head. He looked at the spot where Toon had been standing, but the dinosaur had already disappeared.

“Did anyone here, including Blaugrunn-ssi, happen to notice Toon’s foot?”


“The foot? What foot? That foot?”

“Yeah, that foot. The one it stood on.”

“Foot? It’s impossible to see Toon’s foot.”

While Kijung and Leeha paused in doubt, Bobae replied. If the 10th rank archer couldn’t see it, then it was impossible for anyone else to.

“I didn’t notice anything peculiar either.”

“Um, is that so, Blaugrunn-ssi.”

It seems Mana also didn’t perceive anything strange. However, as their answers came in, Leeha nodded his head slightly.

What Chiyou, and Sasuke, could not predict was this.

“There certainly was something there on top of the foot. Didn’t something squirm around? After the wave ended, didn’t it emit a white light?”

Through the attribute of ‘object recognition’ under intelligence, Leeha’s vision was much sharper than reality.

“On top of the foot? Is there any magic that would be useful there?”

“I agree with Hyein. If it was a skill, there should have been some effect, but there was none. Initially, it doesn’t seem plausible for such a gigantic dinosaur to have long-range attacks.”

“Oh-hoho, Kijung-ssi! You’re pretty sharp this time? In fact, during the attack back at Mammoths’ base, Toon had almost no long range attack. I doubt it actually had any magic skills.”

Hyein, Kijung, and Bobae continued the discussion sparked by Leeha’s observation.

Things got a bit noisy quickly, but none of this was the answer that Leeha wanted.

‘Did I see it wrong?’

Leeha recalled the situation a while ago.

‘No. There was definitely something. Ah, damn! I guess I need to start finding the ingredients for the scope first. Let’s start by searching the places that I have not been to in the new continent.’

Having only a clear field of vision was way too insufficient.

Indeed, at this point, the most needed item was a scope, not only for seeing distantly but also for enhancing sniping accuracy. It was an essential tool.


‘Even for the quest of Black Bass.’

With Leeha’s determination, the second wave came to an end.

In many respects, the second wave became more of a hot topic than the first one.

The presence of the upgraded kids revealed by Leeha, the power of the diversified giant monsters, and above all, ‘the results’ had caused a ripple effect.

“Ha-ha-ha! Did you see the changed ranking?”

“Wh-what? Ram Hwayeon! I was just changing clothes-”

“Now is not the time to change your clothes! The ranking chart is a total mess!”

“Wwait! Hhold on! Let me get dressed!”The following morning, after his rehabilitation training was finished and while changing his sweat-drenched clothes, Ram Hwayeon barged into Leeha’s room.

While speaking desperately, her eyes quickly roved over Leeha’s bare upper body, but he failed to catch her gaze.

The Top 10 rankings were being announced directly in Middle Earth.

It was practically one of the few facts that could not be manipulated by simple rumors or schemes.

Once ingrained, significant time was required for it to change.

‘But, if Ram Hwayeon is making this much of a fuss…’

In the past, unless there were repeated occurrences like Faust or Chiyou dying and losing levels, even a one-rank difference in the ranking was not easily changed.

“What’s changed so much that Ram Hwayeon-ssi has hurried over to my place first thing in the morning?”

“Be quiet, and just look for yourself.”

As soon as Leeha finished changing, Ram Hwayeon held out her tablet to show him.

“… What’s this?”

First place being Alexander and second place being Lee Jiwon stayed the same. But looking at the name of the player in the third place, Leeha looked at Ram Hwayeon with a baffled expression.

“Igor?”


Leeha recalled the rankings switching around the time when he had just started on Middle Earth.

It was when the fourth-place Peiyu overtook the third-place Igor. That very ranking had now been returned to the original order. Ram Hwayeon nodded at Leeha’s question.

“That’s not all. Look down, further.”

“Oh! Ram Hwajung-ssi has risen to sixth place, that’s- wait, what! Chiyou is in seventh place?”

Their eyes met again. Ram Hwayeon nodded.

“Something’s happened.”

An unusual atmosphere indicated by the rankings began to brew in Middle Earth once again.

* * *

1. Alexander 2. Lee Jiwon

3. Agromni Igor

4. Peiyu

5. Pierre

6. Ram Hwajung

7. Chiyou

8. Shin Nara

9. Faust

10. Prea

11. Bobae

‘Even if a single rank in the top ten shifted, it stirred things for few days…’

Almost all the rankings except for the first and second had shifted. It indeed was logical for Ram Hwayeon to look for Leeha early in the morning.

“It’s impossible. How can this happen? Even if this event was a stepping stone for leveling up, could this really happen? If experience points are at stake, we should all be gaining them equally. It was a given that our Hwajung would rise, but this…”

Ram Hwayeon grumbled.

Leeha kept staring at the ranking chart.

‘Indeed, it was known amongst users that the Monster Wave Defense event was primarily organized by Middle Earth to boost users’ abilities. Provided one was willing to face the danger, the huge gain was guaranteed.’

No event in the history of Middle Earth had ever offered such extensive experience rewards. However, after hearing Ram Hwayeon, Leeha felt a certain discomfort. Soon, he figured out the cause.

“No.”

“What?”

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi, didn’t you participate in the Wave Defense?”

“Well, my level… I was at a certain level.”

She wasn’t even playing the game to level up in the first place.

Her main objective in Middle Earth was to gather information and manage different cities in the mainland. Moreover, Ram Hwayeon was not a member of ‘Byulcho’.

Therefore, her speculation was bound to be inflated.

What about Leeha?

He knows. There was a commonality among those who had a shift in their rankings.

“Igor, Chiyou, Prea. None of them participated in the Monster Wave Defense.”

“What? So, so how did they level up? There should have been no event during the Wave that could give more experience! Did they conveniently clear an enormous quest by coincidence?”

“I don’t know about that. But there’s one thing I do know.”

There were two commonalities among the users who found the shifted rankings strange. One was that they did not participate in the Monster Wave.

“And what’s that?”

“It’s Chiyou’s crew. The ones who moved with ‘Yamato’.”And yet another was a user who revealed himself from the side of Chiyou, the Infinite Assassination Target of “Byulcho.”

Looking at Leeha’s frowning face, Ram Hwayeon’s eyes widened in surprise.

“The rankings were announced today, right?”

“Uh, yes.”

“Okay. Thanks for letting me know. Oh, and could you help me with ticketing to Korea? I’d like to go straight away.”

It’s not like going to Korea would overturn the situation in Middle Earth again.

But this was all about attitude. It was a revealing statement about Leeha’s resolution to focus 100% on Middle Earth without any sort of distraction.

Ram Hwayeon, too, fully grasped what Leeha was implying.

“All right. As long as Dr. Heinrich allows it, I’ll arrange for a private plane right away. So you could leave as early as tomorrow.”

“Huh? I don’t expect a private plane, but thanks.”

Always anxious about the change in the rankings, yet so bold in his actions.

‘Perhaps it’s not so much that he’s audacious, but that he is simply more knowledgeable?’

Her confidence and action came from her knowledge.

Leeha thought that the saying ‘ignorance is bliss’ would never apply to her.

“Oh, and one more thing.”

“Hmm?”

“Is there somewhere I can buy gifts for my mom –”

Gahhh-!

“Woah!”

“Oops!”

The door to Leeha’s ward opened in a rough manner. The force it generated was enough to surprise both Ram Hwayeon and Leeha. The culprit was a little girl.

“Oppa. I…”

“Uh, yes?”

“Where to buy gifts, I know.”

From where had she been listening? Unable to close their mouths, Leeha and Ram Hwayeon were staring at Ram Hwajung who stormed in as if breaking down the enemy’s castle gates.

The final day in Hong Kong had just begun.

“But, isn’t she moving a bit too flashy?”

“What? Because the heliport is far from Canton Road, a vehicle might be better. If it were a shopping mall, a helicopter would be preferable, but it’s just a street.”

“Oh… I see you never thought about public transport in the first place.”

Sitting in a pure white limousine, Leeha shook his head.

In a high-income city like Hong Kong, a vehicle not easily seen would undoubtedly attract the attention of pedestrians, yet Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung seemed completely unfazed.

“Hm? What did you say?”

“No, it’s nothing.”

Shortly feeling embarrassed, Leeha soon became accustomed to the spacious ride in the limousine.

From his seat, how many people can lie down straight to the driver’s seat?

It was strange how such curiosity came to mind, and it was also amazing that no immediate answer came to that thought.

‘A limousine is a sight to behold, only seen in movies… it’s like a long vehicle in Hollywood, the ones movie stars ride to film award ceremonies.’

He chuckled at the thought of experiencing all sorts of bizarre events in life.

“Oppa, are you thirsty?”

“Huh? Ah, no, it’s not a dry cough, but the situation is just amusing – ”

“Just a moment.”

Pop.

Maybe it was because Ram Hwajung, who had been staring intently at Leeha, felt any small detail, she reached out and pressed a button near her.

The long limousine wasn’t just long for no reason.

You wouldn’t build such a long vehicle just to test if two or three people could lie down in a straight line.

“Wow…”

Whoosh-!

She casually opened a small fridge next to her. It was no surprise that she skillfully opened a bottle of soda and handed it to Leeha.

Seeing Leeha’s bulging eyes, Ram Hwayeon chuckled.

(To be continued…)
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“That’s why Hwajung loves this car the most. Didn’t you notice that she started searching for the car when she heard you were going shopping?”

“Surprisingly. Ram Hwajung-ssi likes simplicity-”

Leeha closed her mouth before she could finish saying ‘likes simple things’. On second thought, there wasn’t a single time when Hwajung was simple; she just expressed her opinions less frequently.

‘Oh well. Maybe I just didn’t know.’

At this level of affluence, simplicity might be an unparalleled luxury.

“Do you have anything to recommend, Ram Hwayeon-ssi? I wonder what your mother likes. This is the hardest part.”

“If you’re looking for something safe, maybe a muffler or some clothes. Or maybe a bag? Shoes? Nevertheless, she’s been away from home for over a month. It might be nice to buy her something nice.”

“Well, that’s true. But I don’t know her taste very well.”

Even though Hwajung was careful with her spending, she must have different clothes depending on the season. Leeha was cursing at herself for not even remembering that much.

“Or how about tea? You’re preparing a restaurant, aren’t you?”

“Oh, it’s not exactly a restaurant, more like an eatery-”

“Tie Guan Yin is quite good.”

“That’s right, that’s right. Among oolong teas, tie Guan Yin is the best. Preparing something like that might make her happy, right?”

At the suggestion of Ram Hwajung, Ram Hwayeon clapped her hands.

There was certainly a point to her suggestion. Leeha was also aware of her mother’s character. She would prefer a more practical gift rather than luxury clothing or accessories.

“That sounds good. Tie Guan Yin? Is that a good one? I thought all teas were the same.”

“Indeed! It’s good. There’s a shop here. If you want to buy a good one, it would have to be around 30 years old … or maybe even 50 years old for a restaurant opening ceremony.”

“…What? 50-year-old?”

“Tea leaves. Oolong tea can be aged for a long time. The complex yet firm flavor is unparalleled-”


“No need to explain, I can guess the price.”

Does tea also follow the same age-rating as wine? Knowing roughly how much wine costs, Leeha could immediately shake his head. Her mother may like practical gifts, but if you spent that much money on something to eat, she might get scolded instead.

“It’s not that expensive. For 1kg-”

“Your definition of ‘not expensive’ and mine are quite different … But I’m curious. How much is it?”

“For a 50-year-old… um… 250,000 HKD?”

“250,000 Hong Kong dollars in our money is-”

Leeha hastily finished calculating. And then asked again.

“Not that expensive?”

“It’s worth that much.”

“Is it…”

The tea leaves of the Tie Guan Yin, worth 35 million won in Korean money, and that’s for only 1kg. And you’re supposed to brew this tea and serve it at a restaurant?

She wasn’t sure how many cups that would last, but even if her mother sold thousands of dishes of pork and kimchi stew, she might barely make a profit.

‘Should I find it amazing, or frightening? When it comes to these things, it’s like dealing with an unknown entity.’

Leeha thought she might never fully understand the Lamb family.

What’s more, if the place they were going to was full of shops selling such items… could he even find the gift he wanted there?

“Oh, I shouldn’t have asked! After talking with Ram Hwayeon, my head has become even more confused.”

“It’s okay, oppa.”

“Huh? What’s okay, Ram Hwajung-ssi?”

“I’ve bought it. The gift.”

Watching Ram Hwajung bashfully laughing and holding a platinum card, Leeha was at a loss for words.


But he didn’t have the luxury of speaking anyway.

The real shopping had started, and it took an astounding 5 hours 45 minutes to cover major shopping spots in Hong Kong including Canton Road.

Still, he was too busy chasing after her, who coolly shouted “Next” and hopped onto the limousine.

Even Kijung, the specialist in tanking, and Bobae, the former 10th-ranked, current 11th-ranked archery Olympian, struggled with Ram Hwajung’s shopping tour, and Leeha got to fully experience it as well.”I think I understand why Ram Hwajung-ssi likes this car. Public transportation is not an option.”

“Right? I feel drained whenever I use it.”

Ram Hwayeon frowned, massaging her legs. How many people could sleep in it? The question lingered as the limousine’s interior was filled with shopping bags. The trunk was crammed full by the time they left the second shopping mall. Now, after passing the sixth mall, it was only natural that the shopping bags had taken over the vehicle’s interior. Shopping with Ram Hwajung was almost a mystery itself.

‘Even their expressions are getting brighter…!’

Leeha remembered.

He remembered the face of Toon, reviving by consuming the users’ blood during the final attack in the Arcane Bullet’s Fortress.

‘The fear and cuteness, two opposites, become one when they reach the extreme… such nonsense naturally comes out.’

Leeha stealthily pushed the shopping bag while figuring out how to position himself.

According to Ram Hwayeon, there’s one more mall, the very last one. It was sad realizing he hadn’t bought anything amidst all this shopping.

“Jewels.”

“Oh, Ram Hwajung-ssi!”

“It’s like they lose their mind whenever something shiny comes out.”

As they entered the grand mall that embodied the five elements, Ram Hwajung started running.

Even Leeha, who had visited plenty of luxurious boutiques today, was welcomed by shop employees in front of a renowned jewelry shop he had heard about multiple times.

“Wow… So this is what people mean by a different world.”

Everywhere across Leeha’s view, jewels twinkled enticing potential buyers.

Save for the excited Ram Hwajung who rushed in, Leeha and Ram Hwayeon leisurely browsed through the jewels.


“Is that a diamond?”

“Obviously.”

“Wearing a ring like that, wouldn’t you be unable to do the dishes?”

In that moment, Ram Hwayeon distanced herself from Leeha.

“Is that all you think of when you see such a ring?”

“Well, it could get caught on the lips while brushing, so you would need to take it off to wash.”

“Clearly, you have no sense of mood.”

“Well, I’m just curious! I can see that it’s beautiful too.”

As Ram Hwayeon shook her head, Leeha tried to argue but the moment had already passed. The staff standing nearby approached the bickering pair with a polite suggestion.

“Why not consider this to soothe your girlfriend?”

“Eh? Us-”

“Who, who, who’s the girlfriend!?”

The more shocked one was Ram Hwayeon. The staff who started the conversation, taken aback, immediately apologized, making Leeha feel flustered as well.

“Is it that bad being mistaken for my girlfriend?”

“No, who, who’s unhappy?”

“Hmm?”

“It’s not like that- Ugh, nevermind!”

As the flustered Ram Hwayeon stomped off, the staff let out a surprised laugh.

“I must have mistaken you two for a newlywed couple. I apologize for my mistake, madam.”

Leeha could almost see a 『Magma Eruption』 skill cast in the direction of Ram Hwayeon.

“Stop! Stop! You can’t say things like that!”

Wondering what to say at her reddened face that was almost teary, Leeha contemplated. How much angrier would she get to hear us referred to a couple?

“Ram Hwayeon?”

However, Ram Hwayeon didn’t say anything.

She simply turned around and limped away.”Hyung. Mother. Gift.”

“Huh? Ram… Ram Hwajung.”

The one who had approached the flustered Leeha and the clerk was Ram Hwajung.

Almost all kinds of jewelry could be found in this store, and she was holding an item that resembled a small crystal ball.

“So, they sell things like this as well?”

“Sparkly stuff. I like.”

“Hmm, it’d surely look very luxurious for interiors.”

“There are such things in Middle Earth too.”

“A crystal ball? Well, yes, even Rubini-”

“Yep. The glass tribe monster. It’s strong. It’s precious.”

Leeha’s nodding motion momentarily stops.

A glass tribe monster? It was a species that at least, Leeha hadn’t encountered in his journey so far.

“What’s a glass tribe monster?”

“Monsters that use a lot of sparkling things.”

“They use a lot of sparkling things? Like a golem with a glass exterior, or something like that?”

Ram Hwajung shook her head.

It was quite the task having a smooth conversation with Ram Hwajung, who often cut off sentences into single syllables. Lâm Hwayeon, thankfully, had returned to her original expression.

She also knew about it.

“The place where Hwajung currently resides in the new continent has an area made of ice. She also learned her new Ice Mage skills there as well.”

“Ah! The Ice Age?”

“Right. The paleos in that area use ice, just like glass. Unless it’s melted by a fire, it doesn’t melt under sunlight either. I think they called it ‘Ice Freeze Ostrich’? Anyway, it seems there are monster tribes that bother the paleos. Hwajung cleared them out and earned the skill in return.”

Several guild members of Ram Hwajung had been assisting with leveling up Ram Hwajung.

This was done for the use of the Mana Injector and the resulting report, but Ram Hwayeon didn’t miss the minuscule details within that report.

“Handles glass…… Ostrich……”

Leeha thought deeply.

Maybe this held a high possibility of providing a clue.

Even though it’s not glass but ice, if it doesn’t melt unless fire is applied? Isn’t that enough to shape and use as glass?

‘That also means they possess technology.’ In other words, they might be able to create a lens with a magnifying effect.

Lâm Hwayeon had a mysterious smile on her face, watching Leeha’s deep concentration. Her face seemed to suggest that she had figured out what Leeha was thinking.

“If you’re interested, I’ll let you know the location.”

“As expected, Ram Hwayeon-ssi! You got it exactly right!”

“You don’t need to react like an old man.”

“Uh, okay? Right.”

Once Leeha’s secret plan was exposed in no time, he awkwardly scratched his head.

What might Ram Hwayeon have thought about Leeha, who still managed to think about Middle Earth even while shopping for a mother’s gift? At least, her expression didn’t look disapproving.

She already had a small necklace in her hand.

“How about this as a gift for Mom? It’s a safe choice.”

“Ah….”

A necklace with what looked like three interconnected rings.

While extremely simple in design, the fact that three rings were intertwined was enough to symbolize a family.

“Isn’t it good?”

“Uh, yes. Thank you.”

Leeha accepted the necklace from Ram Hwayeon. Despite looking around all day, there hadn’t been a more fitting gift.

“Go ahead and pay quickly. Hwajung seems to have finished shopping as well.”

Despite her grumbling, lâm Hwayeon was busy taking care of things. Leeha didn’t know what to say to express his gratitude.

Fortunately, Leeha wasn’t completely oblivious.

This was an invaluable opportunity for him, as one of the two always had to stick around him.

“Excuse me.”

Leeha whispered with his card extended. Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung were already outside heading towards the next store.

“Yes?”

“Hehe.”

The clerk was taken aback by Leeha’s laughter.

The shopping spree that started in the morning ended at dinnertime.

“Are you sure you’re okay eating out in such a place?”

“Yep. The food at the hotel that Ram Hwayeon-ssi arranged was amazing…… But still, I prefer street food.”

“Hmm…… Oppa. Your taste.”

Ram Hwajung followed behind Leeha with a displeased expression.

Perhaps for them, it was their first time eating in a restaurant where locals of Hong Kong ate. Leeha laughed with an inexplicable sense of joy.

Except for the few tumultuous days due to Ram Hwajung’s kidnapping incident, Leeha who hadn’t enjoyed a truly Hong Kong style day even once, found it to be an unforgettable experience.

(To be continued…)
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“Huh? No need for departure checks?”

Leeha, who had driven his car up to the edge of the runway, asked in surprise.

“Yep. All procedures have been taken care of. You just need to get on board”, Ram Hwayeon calmly replied.

Leeha had planned to say his goodbyes while waiting for the departure process, but it seemed that all the farewell speeches he had painstakingly thought of since the night before were now useless.

Apparently, all the procedures had been already taken care of by Ram Hwayeon using Ram Long’s private plane. All Leeha needed to do was board the plane. He gave Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung an awkward smile.

“I feel sorry for always accepting your help”, he said. Unlike Ram Hwayeon, who had her makeup perfectly done early in the morning, Ram Hwajung’s eyes were swollen.

“Then don’t go.”

“Huh? Ha-ha, I understand how you feel, Ram Hwajung-ssi, but I can’t stay.”

“Call mother.”

“Keu-heu, that’s certainly an interesting idea.”

Could this be called a mature response? However, Ram Hwajung’s eyes began to spill tears like tiny pebbles at his evasive words, giving her hopes. Leeha, unable to endure the painful look in her eyes, watched as she briskly rubbed and dried her eyes.

The sight of Ram Hwajung crying had Ram Hwayeon genuinely surprised. Ram Hwajung had seldom cried even when she was little. It was almost impossible to imagine her crying now that she had grown up.

Who would have thought she might cry in a public place!

“Don’t cry, listen-”

“I’m not crying.”

When Leeha tried to console her, Ram Hwajung denied his gesture. Although tears were welling up in her eyes and falling drop by drop, she insisted she wasn’t crying.

Was this due to the inherent personality of the Ram Long family? Leeha faintly thought that it might be their family trait to never show weakness in front of others.

“Thank you for everything. Both for helping with my leg and guiding me around Hong Kong.”

“There’s no need to be grateful. From now on, I’ll be ripping you off in Middle Earth.”


“Oh, is that so? Ha, okay. Rip me off as much as you want.”

Leeha was well aware that along with the surgery fees that he had directly covered, the other additional expenses were not insignificant.

Including the hotel cuisine that was prepared for him daily, and the cost of the luxury suite that Kijung and Bobae had stayed in, virtually everything was granted for free.

Moreover, they provided Middle Earth access for Leeha to concentrate on his gaming, and considering the expenses for the private plane, the costs were definitely not trivial.

“Well, what you provide in Middle Earth is what you provide.”

“Huh?”

“It’s not really a big deal, but, even with my thick skin, I can’t just leave so shamelessly.”

Leeha rummaged through his bag while looking at Ram Hwayeon, who was tilting her head in confusion. In his small travel backpack, Leeha pulled out two small boxes.

“Here.”

Boxes small enough to hold in one hand. The brand name was engraved on the top. It was a name Ram Hwayeon would recognize. Seeing the two women staring at the boxes in Leeha’s hands, his face turned red.

“Come on, take it! It’s embarrassing for the one giving the gift.”

“What are these?”

“What do you think? I bought them at the store yesterday.”

The gifts Leeha bought from the jewelry accessory shop weren’t only for his mother. The moment Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung left the store, he quickly purchased these recommended by an employee.

“They’re gifts.”

Like being entranced, Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung each picked up the boxes addressed to them. Click, the boxes opened with a faint noise of separating magnets.

Ram Hwayeon’s eyes turned red. A ruby earring glowed brilliantly as it caught the light.

Ram Hwajung’s face turned both yellow and blue. The gift that Leeha had picked out for her was a sapphire necklace.

Both pieces of jewelry weren’t excessively large or flashy. At a casual glance, they might seem modest, but they were dazzling on the inside.

“They may be cliché, but, well, as far as I could choose, these were the best. Ha-ha.”Feeling somewhat embarrassed, Leeha tried to put forth an awkward laugh, but it elicited no response from the girls. Their faces were stern as they stared intently at the box.


‘Gosh, clerk sister, you clearly said it would suit me well!’

What were their stiff expressions trying to convey? Didn’t the atmosphere seem like they were about to throw the box away out of dissatisfaction, claiming it wasn’t their style?

“If, um, you don’t like it – I kept the receipt just in case you wanted to do an exchange or a refund-”

“You idiot!”

“-Ack!”

Ram Hwayeon’s sudden shout drew attention from those around them. Startled, Leeha, who had been fumbling with the receipt, looked at her.

“What on earth-”

That bewildered reaction didn’t last long. Ram Hwayeon approached Leeha one step at a time.

Leeha thought that Ram Hwayeon’s eyes, seen up close, shone like jewels.

“Why would I exchange this? You really are an idiot!”

A single tear from her soaked Leeha’s shoulders.

“What?”

It was an unexpected action that took him by surprise.

It was definitely different from Ram Hwajung’s surprise(?) . You couldn’t compare a girl’s lovely surprise with Ram Hwayeon’s sudden one.

Especially here in Hong Kong, where almost no one would recognize Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung.

But Leeha was also a man. He wasn’t foolish enough to ask, ‘Wouldn’t it be awkward if people saw us like this?’

in such a scenario.

“I’m sorry. Thank you.”

Lightly patting her back, he comforted her. What more needed to be said? It was a serious and hot hug, making it feel like something was simmering inside.

After the brief embrace, Ram Hwajung also joined in and the heated atmosphere cooled down slightly. When Ram Hwayeon let go of the hug, she turned her head and chided, “Come on, let’s go?”


He couldn’t comprehend that she thought she might burst into tears if she continued to see his face.

“I’ll see you next time then!”

Ram Hwajung cheerfully waved goodbye as he watched Leeha leave.

Ram Hwayeon, who hadn’t left her seat until Leeha had departed, only sighed and muttered once he’d boarded the plane.

“Alright. But next time I’m not letting you go.”

The private jet of the Ram Long Group took off. Leeha was able to get some sleep on the plane, satisfied that he had at least given them a parting gift.

But what was the ‘real gift’? He still didn’t know.

Upon landing at Incheon International Airport and going to get his luggage, he had a baffling experience.

“All of this is…mine?”

“Yes, sent by Ram Hwayeon-ssi and Ram Hwajung-ssi.”

Even a private jet needs to inspect luggage. This is to prevent aviation accidents and emergencies within the airport.

Now being a private jet, he only had to check his own luggage, so he had only brought one suitcase. However, the situation now was baffling.

A staggering 13 carriers were coming out on the conveyor belt. Everything Ram Hwajung had bought while meeting with the Chairman of Ram Group, along with everything else she bought yesterday, had been given to Leeha.

Opening one carrier, Leeha was on the verge of tears. Seeing what Ram Hwajung had bought, he realized ‘she had bought it all to give to mom’.

Feeling as if he was eating wasabi, he had to raise his head.

“Then, I wish you safe travels.”

“Wait, the gifts…were lovely, but…”

“Yes?”

“Do I have to carry all this myself? Can you help?”

“What?”Even in the midst of this, he could rely on the strength of the Ram Long Group employees, a power sharpened like a relentless steel blade! He knew well how to fully utilize what he learned in Middle Earth and Hong Kong.

Myeong-dong!

The old-fashioned bell rang.

Although he usually wouldn’t be home at this hour, for some reason, things had changed recently.

‘I asked Kijung about it too.’

He quickly fixed his hair while looking at his smartphone’s black screen. It was then, after a month of absence, the front door, so familiarly out of place, opened.

“Hello, who is thi-.

‘

“Ta-dah! Mom’!

”

“-Is that you, Leeha?”

“No, would you be sad if you can’t recognize your son’s face?”

Leeha forcefully hugged his mother.

Despite seeing him face to face, she couldn’t believe that he was her son. He picked her up.

“Oh, my goodness, Leeha! You-“

“I’m all better now! I went to Hong Kong! I had surgery, mom’!

”

His mother couldn’t believe that the man standing in front of her on his own two feet was her son.

Hearing Leeha’s voice, his mother’s expressions rapidly shifted. From shock akin to horror, to forced laughter, to muscle contractions from squinting her face.

“Don’t cry, it’s such a happy day! right?” holding on to his mother, Leeha shook his body as if to soothe her. Otherwise, he knew she would see his tears.

“Thank you God… Thank you.”

The mother grabbed Leeha’s head, face, and shoulders. She was crying so hard that there was no time to ask about the surgery or show any anxiety.

Leeha could no longer hold back his tears, letting out all the pent-up emotions of the past months.

Sobbing sounds came from the staff of Ram Long Group, who were watching the reunion from the corridor.

That night,

It was only fair that Kijung, who hadn’t received even a word of notice, was called to Leeha’s house.

After the lighthearted teasing, it was also reasonable to expect the huge feast to follow.

“You really have to appreciate the large hand of an aunt, in terms of taste too. Leeha hyung, eat a bit slower. People might think you were starving in Hong Kong.”

As Leeha moves quickly, almost to the sounds of musical clattering in the dishes, Kijung chided him before he was ignored.

Despite that, the cooking continued on.

With a face full of joy, Leeha’s mother fetched another heaping bowl of bulgogi.

“Please help yourself too, sir. We have plenty.”

“Oh, ahem, no, I am really full”

“Please, have a little more. Yeah? Do have some more.”

As Leeha’s mother served more meat on his bowl, the man who couldn’t refuse had to eat the meat in resignation.

“But why am I having dinner here?”

“You see, my mom tends to be retentive. You’ve already helped so much, please eat your fill.”

The employee of the Ram Long Group, who had heaved a countless amount of suitcases, also drowned in the taste of Korean food.

After a month of silence, laughter was blooming throughout Leeha’s home.

“Eeeeek! Home’s the best!”

“Anyone would think this is our home. Is there any difference between logging in to the game from Hong Kong or from Korea?”

Kijung scoffed at Leeha’s words.

As they were talking about the game, it didn’t really matter.

“Oh come on, it’s a different mindset.”

Despite having had to explain the events and the surgery that happened in Hong Kong overnight, Leeha logged into Middle Earth the next day.

It was Middle Earth after a mere four hours of sleep, but thanks to the feeling of ‘this is home where I play the game’, his body was overflowing with energy.

“So, why did you call me here? What’s so surprising?”

“Hehe, Kijung. Don’t you trust me?”

“I would have liked to, but I should have something for me amongst the presents, right?”

The reason Kijung was slightly upset was because despite the assortment of extravagant items flowing out of the suitcases, none of them was for him.

Given that Leeha had not even thought of giving presents to anyone other than his mother, it was quite reasonable. Nevertheless, Leeha was not flustered. For Kijung, he could certainly make a gift.

“That’s why you’re here. For your present.”

“A present? Would you buy something for me from the blacksmith?”

“No, it’s not buying you something… Bottleneck-ssi! “Hey, has the knight arrived?”

“Here, my friend, do you think this shield can be strengthened?”

Leeha punched Kijung’s shield.

(To be continued…)
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Kijung momentarily looked at Leeha and Bottleneck with a bewildered expression.

“Hyung? What are you up to?”

“Dude, I crafted this while overcoming death in the New Continent. It’s in another dimension compared to ordinary durability, talk to Bottleneck-ssi here. Would anyone enhance this so easily?”

Leeha’s gift was nothing other than 『Enhancement』! Having already completed the testing phase, Bottleneck was almost harassing Leeha in his eagerness for the item to be 『Enhanced』. Even if it wasn’t a complicated weapon but Kijung’s ‘shield’, “Good! It’s been a while since I enhanced that little lady’s staff! I’ve been so bored! Who knew it would take this long for the second Lord to show up! Here, you! Come over here! Let’s plan out how to 『Enhance』 this!”

With these words, Bottleneck practically snatched Kijung’s shield and headed into the 『Enhancement – exclusive blacksmith’s workshop』. To a still bewildered Kijung, Leeha whispered, “You’re welcome?”

With a smirk on his face, Leeha playfully patted his shoulder. There was an undeniable sense of respect blended with the irritation towards him.

“Really,-hyung… You’re such an unpredictable person. I admit it!”

“Giggle, yeah. Complete it nicely! Contact me if anything comes up!”

“Okay! Thanks,-hyung!”

Only after watching Kijung wave brightly, did Leeha start operating the crystal ball. There was only one destination he needed to reach right now. Leeha headed for the northernmost point of the New Continent that he knew.

“Now, let’s go fetch the lens!”

-『Temperature drops to minus 20 degrees.』

-『The chances of getting frostbitten due to the cold increases.』

“Oh dear, it seems we’ve finally reached the perpetual frozen tundra.”

“I think it’s just starting for me.”

The northernmost point of the New Continent Leeha knew was the Jade Mountain.

Even though he had climbed the mountain and downhill several times through Blaugrunn, in the end, he had no choice but to walk.

And so, after about six more hours…

Finally, Leeha arrived at what he thought was the entrance to the northernmost point of the New Continent.


“Ugh, I should’ve just travelled riding Blaugrunn-ssi!”

“But you’re the one who said not to do that, Leeha-nim.”

If he travelled around riding the changed Blaugrunn, there would be no limit to his speed.

There wouldn’t be any obstacle he couldn’t traverse, and he would reduce his travel time significantly, but Leeha had chosen not to.

“That’s just petty complaining. Honestly, it would catch the eye and if I wander around above the clouds, I’ll be totally clueless about the terrain below. Knowing exactly the terrain and ecology of the New Continent is important. I also discovered the paleo tribes on my way here.”

Hiding the power of the Bronze Dragon was the first reason.

If it catches the eyes of the people on the way, rumours will spread. Once a rumour spreads, it becomes information and someone with swift reflexes may notice.

Moreover, he could easily miss out on the possibility of encountering other paleo or monster tribes.

Leeha knew very well just how much of a significant force each piece of live information could become.

“Well… I just looked from afar and ran away.”

“There’s nothing we can do about that now! I’ve just marked it for now, we’ll have to fetch the lens first and then, I’ll capture all those tribes, hah!”

The penalty of the Common Quest, which made befriending more difficult, was not an issue for Leeha alone.

This means that for now, the users are struggling even to raise the intimacy to the point where they are ‘not attacked’, let alone reaching a 100%.

Especially here, in the wilderness!

These are paleo tribes that hardly any user has reached. Then there’s a high chance the spot for 100% achievement in the Hall of Fame hasn’t been taken yet.

Who wouldn’t be envious of that, given how agility stat is quite high? However, any stat related to attack power is better the higher it is.

So far, he’s only been focusing on agility, but it’s not agility that Leeha is coveting the achievement for.

‘I need to increase my intelligence. My intelligence needs to go up.’The fine-tuning of intelligence stats at a 100% synchronization rate alone made things ‘visible’ that were previously unseen. If I could further elevate my intelligence stat, perhaps there would be no need for things like lenses?

Below, elizabeth’s words still lingered.

– Still can’t see it?


Below mulled over what that phrase meant.

That is, did Elizabeth mean ‘seeing’? Without the need for lenses, covering distances of 6 kilometers, or even 8 kilometers, isn’t that what she implied…

‘Well, that’s something to think about later. First, I need to make a scope. If I’m lucky, I can recover the Black Bass within 5 days. If not, I’m in for about a week?’

The time had passed unnoticed from the moment I had left it to bonobo paleo.

How might it have been enhanced?

‘Simply seeing from a distance has no value. Just being able to shoot from afar won’t cut it either.’

I need to acquire both traits.

In that respect, if one were to categorize the enhancements by the bonobo paleo as ‘range’, I will need to find a lens and make a scope until then.

At least until now, the execution of the plan had been proceeding flawlessly.

“As long as I can find a lens. Ugh, it’s freezing because of the synchronization.”

He walked for thirty minutes on the ground covered in a layer of frost. Blaugrunn looked worriedly at Below as he stomped on.

Fortunately, it wasn’t snowing, but the biting wind felt like it would cut into the tips of their noses.

“Oh right, Leeha-nim, let me cast an ‘Ice Resist’ spell. Just wait a moment.”

“Oh, that? Mmm… can you do it later? I’m okay for now.”

“Really? But why-”

“I have this, you see.”

『You resisted the state of ‘Extreme cold’』

『You resisted the state of ‘Frostbite’』

Despite the conditions, it was still bearable.

The ‘Hero’s Coat Graced by the Sea God’ increased resistance against cold and ice, and since there was Jellypong, it worked out.


“Sometimes, I think Ha Leeha-nim-nim is a dragon polymorphed into a human…”

“That’s partly correct! After all, I am a member of the family of metal dragons and a relative of Bahamut. Isn’t it right?”

“Your speech is increasingly becoming similar to the Lord’s…”

“Eh? What did you just say?”

“No, nothing.”

It was then that they heard the sound of someone almost retching.

O O O O_______

wi~rs	.

“Hmm?”

“Huh.”

The sound itself wasn’t loud. It was very faint, getting barely carried over by the wind, but the distinct feeling was sure.

“What’s that sound?”

“Shush.”

Below pressed down Blaugrunn’s head, lowering their posture.

Suddenly, something caught Below’s eye. Should I say he saw it, or should I say he didn’t?

Something gleaming in the sunlight was moving at high speed.

“Ugh, it’s bright! ‘Eagle’s Eye’!”

Without hesitation, below used the skill. And he then was certain. The ‘Ice Ostrich’ Ramhayan had spoken of was exactly that.

Just as its name suggested, an ostrich completely composed of ice was sprinting across the frozen earth, its colossal size unfolding exactly as Below predicted.

“Blaugrunn, can you teleport?”

“It’s going pretty fast, so it would be tough to aim directly above it.”

“Nearby is okay too. As long as it’s a distance of around 30 meters.”

“If that’s the case, I can manage it.”

The moment clusters of turquoise beads began to accumulate inside Blaugrunn, Leeha started to load his rifle.

A grapeshot, a bullet. Now, loading two musket-pistols takes less than five seconds.

Considering the time when even the quickest load took about ten seconds for a single musket, it was a remarkable evolution.

Blaugrunn, who was predicting Leeha’s movements, and Leeha, who had unwavering faith in Blaugrunn, were in themselves the perfect partners.

『Mass Teleport』!”

Sha-a-a-a-a-a-at—–!

With the flash of light, Leeha concentrated his mind.

Where had he fallen? In which direction was the frozen ostrich running?

Leeha spun in the air to his left, raising both arms.

“Over here!”

“What?”

Ta-da-a-a-a-ang——-!

Grapeshot and bullet were fired simultaneously in the same direction.

Bang-a-ang-!

The head and neck of the frozen ostrich that had been baffled at the sudden appearance of Leeha and Blaugrunn in mid-air were smashed to smithereens.

When Leeha landed on the ground with a full turn in the air and Blaugrunn also safely touched down, all that could be seen on the ground were shards of ice.

“Phewwwww… Nice play! As expected, we’re completely in sync.”

“Of course. I’m 100% in sync with Leeha. By the way, your movements have become much more-nimble. Have you been doing some special training behind my back?”

“Special training? I can manage this much naturally. Hehe, now, let’s take a look at what this ‘Frozen Ostrich’ was up to. What kind of item has it left?”

With a hearty chuckle, Leeha headed towards the corpse of the frozen ostrich.

Although unmistakable ice shards were scattered on the frozen ground, nothing was as Leeha had expected.

“Huh? What is this?”

“What’s up?”

“Where did the ostrich’s body go?”

What was sprawled on the ground was nothing but ice shards and bits of ice.

There was no ‘ice in the shape of an ostrich’ at all, and it seemed as if rough ice had simply been ground down to create nothing but scattered ice.

“Wouldn’t it be over there? Take a good look.”

“No, it’s truly gone. The ostrich’s grey body… Can’t we even see fragments of the smashed grey carcass?”

Leeha tried searching with his foot, but found nothing at all.

“Can’t find it?”

“It’s not that I can’t find it. There’s no trace at all. Can’t we track it with mana detection or something?”

“Hmm, really. What would you have done without me? Just a moment.”

Leeha’s own『Mana Detection』only works on living creatures and can’t detect dead ones.

“Huh?”

“What is it?”

“The mana should at least be traceable if the body hasn’t disappeared…

“What about it?”

Blaugrunn just tilted his head.

“I don’t feel anything at the moment. It’s as if the mana has evaporated from this place. This is the first time I’ve seen this happen…”

Flabbergasted Leeha and confused Blaugrunn scanned the area one more time, but no change in the result.

At the very least, there was no trace of the frozen ostrich’s carcass in their vicinity.

“What the hell happened?”

Wondering if Lang Hwajung might know something, he checked the friend window, but both Lang Hwajung and Lang Hwayeon were logged out.

Leeha rubbed the back of his head in disbelief.

“Blaugrunn! Let’s move on for now. It’s not like there’s only one ostrich around. Could you please keep checking if there are any ostriches or anything else around?”

“Understood.”

In the end, Leeha gave up searching for the body and moved on.

From the frosty eastern land to the north, how much further did he have to walk? The hard sensation that used to be felt through the shoes had turned into a soft texture.

Squish, squish.

With each firm step on the snow, Leeha walked more carefully.

‘The hard snow, the ground below is more like ice than earth. If you slip, your nose is gonna take the fall…’

Hadn’t he experienced it before in the northern part of the old continent, where crawlods appeared?

Walking on snowy ground is incredibly difficult.

Moreover, when the snow sticks to the shoes and pants, the repeated freezing and melting due to body heat turns it into ice chunks that act as weights, making it even worse.

“Ah! Blaugrunn, are you uncomfortable walking since you’re shorter…?”

Suddenly, Leeha looked back at Blaugrunn, standing behind him.

A creature far smaller and shorter-legged than Leeha, Blaugrunn would naturally find such terrain more difficult. But worry was needless.

“Yes. That’s why I’m flying.”

Blaugrunn, being a dragon, was showing off his dragon-like knack for problems. Floating about 15cm off the ground, he was following Leeha. Seeing that, Leeha couldn’t help but have a mischievous thought.

‘Dirty trickster’, ‘Can’t you walk a little for me’ — even though Leeha was about to grumble, the sound of another monster silenced him.

(Continue in next part…)
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“What’s that noise?!”

“It was the sound that ostrich has been waving earlier! Over there!”

The ice ostrich were running in close range.

They were somewhat higher distances than where Leeha and Blaugrunn were.

Leenha silently loaded his musket-pistol.

Blaugrunn also silently began casting a teleportation spell.

‘I won’t let them escape this time.’

Leenha looked at Blaugrunn.

As soon as he nodded, Blaugrunn cast the teleportation.

Swoooosh-!

“Wha–?!”

“Whaa!”

“Just shout out loud, you annoying ostrichs!”

This time, they were immediately on the front two!

Leeha’s left hand and right hand aimed at each ostrich, and she pulled the trigger.

The grapeshot launched from both guns accurately hit the point where the neck and body of the ice ostrich were connected.

Crack!

With the sound alone, both ostrichs were shattered into pieces.

With a satisfying smile, leenha vigorously blew the gunpowder smoke from the musket-pistol.


“Hoooo- Stay out of my way.”

“Don’t be too harsh on creatures that don’t even participate in monster waves.”

“Who is being harsh?! Finishing these quickly moving brats with one shot, one kill is a massive score.”

“Y-Yes, yes. I understand.”

Leeha wanted to scold Blaugrunn, but now wasn’t the time.

What if the corpse of the ice ostrich turned into ice, disappeared within 30 seconds or 1 minute after becoming a corpse?

‘There is a high possibility that this can occur.’ But they needed to loot their corpses right now. Leenha put his pistol on his hips and immediately searched for their corpses.

“…it’s gone.”

“What? Again?”

“What is this? What on earth is going on?”

It’s been a mere 15 seconds since they had a chat with Blaugrunn. Can there be monsters that don’t even allow 20 seconds to obtain items?

‘It’s not impossible since it’s Middle Earth… But the situation was beyond understanding.

All that was on the ground were countless small pieces of ice. Leenha kicked the ice pieces away.

After looking at the ice shards that glowed like mirrors under the sunlight, leenha had another thought.

“Wait…..

Was it really that the body disappeared because I didn’t loot it within 30 seconds?

She wanted to verify this. Fortunately, there was one way she could confirm this.

『Character Window』

Name: Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 219 (74.1%)


Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievement: 135

HP: 7,910(5,537)

MP: 2,295

Stats: Strength 609(+524)

Agility 3,579(+1,292) Intelligence 326(+275)

Constitution 291(+198) Mind 125(+115)

Remaining Stat Points: 40

“I knew it…!”

“What exactly did you know?”

“I know my stats weren’t that high- ! But still!”The experience points didn’t increase! Despite only killing three monsters, these were beasts from the New Continent.

Moreover, this place, the Frozen Lands, is one of the most vicious terrains within the New Continent. I could not determine the exact level of the Ice Ostriches, but given the difficulty of the hunt, it should have awarded a decent amount of experience points among the monsters of the New Continent.

‘Ramwhajeong said that the camp here was efficient enough to use his Mana Infusion.’

But not even a decimal point of experience points has moved?

There was only one fact I could predict from this result.

“They’re not dead.”

“What?”

“These ostriches… I’m not sure, but they weren’t killed by us.”

“What do you mean? If we didn’t kill them, then why are they dead?”

“I don’t know. But it’s clear. These weren’t hunted by us.”

Leeha looked around. If they didn’t kill these ostriches, then who did?


Chills ran down his spine, and she thought of Mr. and Mrs. Brown.

‘Did one of them snipe us? Or their kid?’

But she soon changed his thought. That wasn’t a logical conjecture. Why would they have come all this way to interfere with Leeha’s hunt? Moreover, if they wanted to sabotage the hunt, they would have directly shot and killed Leeha or Blaugrunn.

“Then something must be with the ostriches…what a variety of creatures.”

“Now what will you do?”

“What can we do? We have to go. Ah, wait, I almost forgot to allocate my stats.”

Having greatly enjoyed the effect of leveling up, she entirely forgot about allocating stats.

Was she not being too careless, even for a person who just resolved to increase his intelligence slightly earlier?

Regretfully, Leeha invested all his stats into intelligence.

‘My intelligence is now 366. It feels like it significantly increased by 40 points.’

Leeha’s vision hadn’t drastically expanded, but she felt a bit clearer, as if she had rinsed his eyes with soothing eye drops, Leeha took a step yet again.

“That, you know.”

“Hmm? What is it, Blaugrunn-ssi?”

About an hour had passed since they resumed walking. As the snowstorm thickened and the cold winds blew over the land, just as Leeha was beginning to feel dull, Blaugrunn spoke.

“When we return to the Lair… I have to treat them better.”

“You mean who?”

“The Silver Dragon Tribe.”

“Silver?”

“They all live in frozen lands. They said how wonderful it would be if there was a Lair somewhere in the glacier… I would probably die of boredom if I had to live in a place like this.”

“Haha, Blaugrunn-ssi, you do have a sense of humor.”

A desolate place where even a dragon would experience profound boredom. A land where grass barely managed to survive and the terrain was so flat that it seemed to lose focus.

‘She camped in such a place because the experience points are good?’

Leeha had a rough estimate of his ardent desire for leveling up. What could have driven his to such an extent?

She couldn’t even dream that her ‘anger’ for not properly assisting Leeha’s sneak attack on Toon provoked his to this extent.

As the frozen snow adhered to the coat, and Jellypong blew the chilly air, breaking the ice, and advancing, Blaugrunn opened his mouth again. This time, there was a seriousness in his voice.

“Leeha-ssi.”

“Yes?”

“Jump when I count three.”

“Suddenly? You don’t seem like you’re in a mood for-”

“One, two-”

“Ahhh!”

“- three! Lift-off!”

Whoosh!

Casting a spell on Leeha, Blaugrunn soared into the air.

“Wha?!”

Pop, pop, popping-!

Suddenly, jagged ice sprouting from the ground made Leeha’s eyes twitch. The place where Leeha had been was now filled with slightly short humans clutching icy spears. Their surprise was brief. Their response was swift.

“That’s no ordinary human!”

“Everyone, transform! Ice Walrus!”

Ice——

Walrus——

“What the heck is this!”

Squinting against the radiant white snow reflecting sunlight, the gleaming shards of ice and the mint-colored light emanating from these creatures, Leeha closed his eyes.

However, even with his eyes shut tight, his hands were deftly reloading his musket and pistol.

“What are you doing! Freeze, or I’ll shoot!”

『Great Barrier』. Setting up a defense first.”

With the sharpened senses of Leeha and his sidekick Blaugrunn, thanks to fine-tune adjustments, they were near invincible. 『Myong myong!』 This holds up even excluding Jellypong, who hasn’t been able to show off his prowess yet, and the upgraded ‘little one’. However, Leeha, aiming his musket-pistol at them from about 10 meters above the ground, didn’t look happy.

“Hmm, Blaugrunn.”

“Yes?”

“Will our barrier also work on them?”

“Well, they are considerably larger than the Red Goats and other paleos we’ve encountered before?”

“Exactly. When have we last seen an animal like that? What was it?”

Looking down at the inhabitants of the snow-covered ground, Leeha realized these creatures were unfamiliar. Compared to the boar paleos we’ve seen, was their skin tougher? Their thick skin seemed to ooze oil, probably strong enough to resist even the sharpest blade of most users.

“Ice, ice… cold places… not a polar bear- those tusks though…”

Each of them, larger than a giant user, had huge tusks pointed downward.

Leeha, scrutinizing their tusks, finally remembered the corresponding animal.

“Oh, oh! Walrus!”

This place is virtually the farthest north of the New Continent. Naturally, it’s possible that it’s connected to the sea somewhere.

As Leeha clapped joyously, Blaugrunn gave him a look of disgust.

“You’re happy about that? Now, look at them closely-”

“Ice Walrus! Deactivate tusk mode. The sight of them holding one tusk in each hand was the epitome of the giant warrior itself.

“And they’re behaving like this…”

Maybe the correct word for them would be giants in walrus skin?

The coarse, straight mustaches extending from beneath their noses, and the similarity of all of them being bald made them look like true warriors.

“From this little human, we sense a weird energy.”

“Understood. We will prepare carefully.”

But as soon as he heard this, Leeha had to regain his composure.

That’s because even with Blaugrunn, if a battle ensued, the intimacy work would be washed away.

“Wait! Wait! We didn’t come here to fight!”

Leeha quickly threw up his arms in surrender.

He had to prove his peaceful intentions before anything else, not knowing what could happen if he pointed his rifle at them.

“Preparing 『Ice Age』, plan to freeze all simultaneously.”

“Ay, ay, sir.”

They didn’t listen to a word Leeha said.

Bright blue mana grains were already accumulating in their bodies. Of course, turquoise mana grains were also gathering around Blaugrunn.

“What should we do, Leeha-ssi? Shall we respond first?”

Assuming no matter how formidable they are, they would not be able to cast magic faster than a dragon, Leeha had more than enough power to wipe out the five walrus paleos on the ground.

“No, no! Let’s wait. Ah, right! Ice Age! Ram Hwajung! You people, you know Ram Hwajung, right?”

Leeha hastily spat out the words. If they didn’t react to that, all he could do was run away.

Without proper adjustment of the coordinates due to the sudden gust of wind, it would take forever to come back if they ever turned back now! “We are friends of Ram Hwajung! We came to kill the Ice Ostrich! We have already killed three of them!” A flinch!

Despite ignoring the mention of Ram Hwajung, their reaction was triggered by the words “Ice Ostrich.”

“Did you really kill the Ice Ostrich?”

“Well, we killed… not sure if we killed them, but we succeeded in attacking them on our way here!”

In a desperate attempt to explain himself, Leeha pointed and gestured wildly.

There was a brief commotion among the walrus paleos, but their expressions turned resolute quickly.

“That’s impossible. Humans simply can’t catch up to the speed of the Ice Ostrich. To have killed them without even being able to restrain their main bodies? An utter lie.”

“The main body? No, anyway! Like I said! Whether they died or not, I don’t know, but we caught them from behind-” Brrraaaaam——-

“Ugh?!”

“What, what is that!”

While Leeha was still gesticulating, he ended up pulling the trigger. The sudden blast twitched the thighs of the Walrus paleos.

But they didn’t charge.

“We took them by surprise like this.”

Leeha was quick to appraise the situation. They had changed their stance already.

Having extended the olive branch once already, he needed to demonstrate his strength next. It was a lesson he learnt from multiple encounters with paleos, about the complications of being underestimated.

“I’ll show you how we caught them. Blaugrunn.”

“Yes.”

Blaugrunn instantly cast Mass Teleport.

Upon seeing this, the Walrus paleos flinched once again, but their alpha remained stoic.

“The very notion of humans being able to catch up with the Ice Ostrich is fundamentally impossible. Their speed is-”

(To be continued…)
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With a metallic clink, a momentary silence swept over the northernmost tip of the New Continent.

“See, it’s possible, right?”

Blaugrunn teleported right next to the pack leader without waiting for any specific instructions from Leeha, and as soon as he appeared, Leeha aimed a musket-pistol at the creature’s head.

“Le-Leader!”

“Attack, attack them now!”

Swish-through!

The walrus paleo’s extracted their own tusks to fashion dual swords and swung them wildly. However, the mass teleport didn’t only transport humans. Ting-Ting-Tang-Tang! The sound resembling that of hitting a frying pan made Blaugrunn snicker. Regardless of the paleo’s being fairly strong, he was certain they couldn’t penetrate his barrier.

“Wait a second! What if I wasn’t a friend of Ramhwa Jeong, and didn’t come here to help you? Your subordinates can’t even break our shield, and here I am, targeting you.”

Click! Leeha returned his musket to its original state with the ball disengaged—a gesture impossible with modern firearms but doable with old-world muskets, something Leeha found amusing.

“What will you do? We’ve come here after hearing from Ram Hwajung-ssi to help you from afar. I believe we’ve sufficiently proven our capabilities.”

“Your name?”

“I’m Leeha. And this little friend here is Blaugrunn.”

“Leeha…! So you’re one of the most famous five individuals.”

The walrus paleo leader mumbled. It seemed that the reputation system among users within the New Continent was increasingly being established. Leeha was aware he was somewhat famous but didn’t realize there was a specific designation as ‘one of the most famous five humans.’

“We owe Ram Hwajung-ssi our thanks for sending such a strong friend. Welcome, comrade. My name is Alakagalak, leading the expedition of the tribal guardian god, odobe.”

“Ala, alakagalak? Nice name, though I don’t know the meaning. Pleased to meet you.”

The walrus paleo leader, alakagalak extended his thick hand. Leeha, without hesitation, grasped it firmly—a hand that could crush his face with ease—and shook it. At last, they had entered the first gate to acquire the lens.

* * *

“Alakagalak dad!”


“Alakagalak dad has returned!”

Their village was approximately three hours further up from where Leeha had wrestled before. It was no longer snow-covered land but rather ‘above the glacier’ would be more accurate to describe their location.

‘The names are so complicated… There was something like Alakalala or Kalalabi Kalalabi before.’

For Leeha, it was an utterly dull journey. What made it bearable was being able to listen and laugh at the names the walrus paleos called each other.

Leeha saw children rushing to hug Alakagalak—a number that was no small feat.

“Seems you have a very healthy marital life.”

“Hmm? I am not married.”

“Eh? Then these kids are-”

“Every adult male is a father, and every adult female is a mother.”

“Ah… Communal parenting.”

Dozens of faces peeked from behind Alakagalak’s thighs, staring intently at Leeha and Blaugrunn, their eyes sparkling. Ice-crafted accessories glittered under the light, but what caught Leeha’s attention was something else.

‘Glasses! Those are glasses.’

One of little kid was definitely wearing glasses. Although they resembled the small frames that might have been worn by nobles in medieval times, giving off an odd vibe, they were unmistakably glasses. Indeed! “I could process the lenses after all.”

The mere mention of glasses implies a concept of lenses, doesn’t it? Leeha tried to befriend Komaren with a broad smile and a wave of his hand, but they just laughed and ran away.

“How on earth did Ram Hwajung-ssi become friends with these people?”

Could it be that the Ice Mage, strong in ice magic, could increase intimacy without saying much? If so, Leeha couldn’t help but feel envious.

Traveling through the frozen lands to the ice dwellings, Leeha had already felt it and was now certain of their residential structures. All the houses were igloos made of ice.

“Native Alaskans, eskimos? Inuits? That must be the original model.”

The bonobo paleos modeled their tribe after a South American Amazon jungle community, and the Red Goats modeled theirs after an African highland tribe. Understanding each paleo’s tribe concept made it easier to discern their desires.

“Well, it’s unlikely the actual Amazon tribes craft items from lava.”


Gaining knowledge from reality and integrating it swiftly with the game’s information, a comprehensive insight was deemed essential for rapid growth in Middle Earth.

“Comrade Leeha, come here. I will guide you to our guardian deity.”

“Yes.”

“Excuse me, Leeha-ssi, may I also enter?”

“Uh? Oh, right. Hmm… Yes, let’s go together.”

Leeha nodded, recalling the relationship between the Red Goat’s guardian deity, aibex, and the Yellow Dragon Bailephus. The two beings seemed to understand that they could satisfy each other’s intellectual curiosity, thus were friendly towards each other. For Blaugrunn, who had not had the opportunity whenever entering a paleo tribe, this adventure must have been particularly thrilling.

“It’s a pity it’s not the same elemental attribute.”

“No! It’s still good! The knowledge gained here can later be exchanged with the Silver Dragon clan, among others! They haven’t made it this far, so we could negotiate something in return for revealing this location?!”

“Ah… How did a pure Juvenile-class Dragon end up like this?”

Leeha felt a twinge of guilt as he looked at Blaugrunn, who had completely adopted his way of speaking.

“Guardian deity Odobe! I have brought Ram Hwajung-ssi comrade, the human Leeha, and his retainer.”

Despite being called a retainer, Blaugrunn just snorted. From inside the massive igloo, a loud “clang” was heard.

“Enter. Lord Odobe awaits.”

Pushing aside the curtain that served as a door, Leeha and Blaugrunn entered. The center of the vast igloo was completely hollowed out below, filled with gently lapping seawater. Suddenly, a gigantic sea elephant emerged, looking at Leeha.

“Hello! My name is Leeha!”

Despite being shocked, Leeha suppressed the urge to shout. The sea elephant, which seemed as large as the Golden Koi Shoer, exuded a grotesque charm.

“Clang! Clang! A human, comrade of the fairy Ram Hwajung. Clang! You are welcomed.”

“Ugh.”

“Quite a noisy seal”, whispered Leeha, covering his ears.

Given the igloo’s round shape, the echo was inevitably louder. Despite this, the term “fairy Ram Hwajung” clearly reached Leeha’s ears.


“I heard from Alakagalak”, he said after a pause.

“You were told by fairy Ram Hwajung to hunt the frozen ostrich.”

“That’s correct. A friend of a friend is also a friend. Hearing that a friend of Ram Hwajung-ssi was in trouble, I came all the way here.”

Leeha bowed politely, and the giant sea elephant roared once more.

At least seals sound cute… Listening to the roar of a walrus that could only poke its head out of the igloo’s hole, more than 20 meters large, was maddening.

“However, I worry if you’ll be able to hunt the frozen ostrich. The entity beside you is certainly… a being called a dragon”, odobe hummed, tilting its head in a way that Leeha found not at all cute. Responding to the word “dragon”, it was Blaugrunn who stepped forward.

“Thank you for recognizing me, odobe-nim. I am Blaugrunn, a Bronze Dragon.”

“Bronze, huh! Yes, I’ve met one of your kind before—a grey-haired cousin, once.”

“Oh? Really? If they were grey, they must have been from the Silver clan! When was this? Ah, but why the hair? Were they in human form? I haven’t heard anything from the Silver clan.”

“Silver? I’m not sure, but they were in human form. The time escapes me though…”

“Wait, that’s not what we’re here to discuss, odobe-nim”, interrupted Leeha, hoping to guide the conversation back on track. This topic, too, was of interest to Leeha. Even the Ancient-class Gold Dragon Bailephus had claimed that the first time they actually saw a mystical creature was at Red Gorge.

‘But there are Silver Dragons who have seen a mystical creature? Wouldn’t they have to be older than Bailephus for that to be possible?’

The ‘type’ like Gold or Silver does not signify the dragon’s rank. A dragon’s strength is derived primarily from experience, which comes with age, and their individual sense.

‘It might not be a Silver after all.’

While it’s entirely possible that there could be a Silver clan member older than Bailephus, Leeha had a slightly different hypothesis in mind.

Putting his curiosity aside for the moment, Leeha said, “Blaugrunn-ssi, I understand your enthusiasm, but let’s save that conversation for later.”

Blaugrunn, understanding the gravity of the situation, did not push further. He was well aware of how adept Leeha was in handling matters like these.

“So, what were you curious about?”

“It’s about how to catch a Ice Ostrich. It might be challenging for me, but given the ‘strength’ dragons possess, I would imagine you’re familiar with it…”

“Know it? Of course, I have seen the delightful power of dragons!”

“Yet you’re saying capturing a Ice Ostrich is difficult?”

Though the word ‘delightful’ made Leeha slightly uneasy, he decided to let it slide for the moment.

“If it were that cheerful dragon, it might have been possible. But I’ve already heard about the strength shown by you, Blaugrunn-ssi, and Leeha-ssi, from Alakagalak, squawk!”

Does that mean what was possible for the dragon of the past might not be for you? It seemed Blaugrunn caught the gist at last. In essence, it implied that their strength was severely underestimated.

“We can do it.”

“With Leeha-ssi and my strength, we could even drive that ostrich to extinction if need be.”

For the first time in a while, Blaugrunn adopted a confident attitude.

Odobe watched this display fondly before crying out once again. And finally, a hologram screen appeared in front of Leeha.

『Crystal of Snow』

Description: “Squawk! The Ice Ostrich collapses at the slightest pressure. Their original form, made of ice, is snow! Chasing after them as they rapidly disintegrate into snow and recombine is no easy task, squawk! Their self-destruction is also an act of self-replication! Causing them stress may inadvertently increase their numbers instead. For our young Ice Walruses, the snow and ice tainted by the Ice Ostrich act as pests and diseases.

“If Leeha-ssi cannot properly handle the Ice Ostrich… even if he is a friend of the Fairy Ram Hwajung, I cannot forgive him, squawk!”

Odobe can make waves in the ocean but on ice, his power is limited. Similarly, his Ice Walrus paleos cannot match the speed of the Ice Ostriches, making it all the more challenging.

Ice Ostriches are to the society of the Ice Walrus paleos what germs are to the human body, threatening the tribe’s health. Let’s vastly reduce their numbers.

Mission: Eliminate 30 Ice Ostriches (0/30)

Reward: 50% increased affinity with Ice Walrus paleos

50% increased affinity with the mystical creature Odobe

Condition for Failure: More than 5 Ice Ostriches self-destruct due to failed attacks

Penalty for failure: -80% affinity with Ice Walrus paleos

-80% affinity with the mystical creature Odobe

– Do you accept? (To be continued…)
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“Ah…! So that’s it!”

Leeha quickly skimmed through the quest description. His speculation was somewhat correct. The ice ostriches had not been killed by Leeha’s attack but had instead self-destructed, turning into pieces of ice! “According to this… the three frozen ostriches that Blaugrunn-ssi and I thought we had killed were actually recombined from six frozen ostriches.”

If the assumption that self-destruction followed by self-division would increase their number to more than six after some time, it meant that Leeha had already failed in dealing with the three he had encountered without even mentioning it. He asked the questions that piqued his curiosity.

“Then, how should I kill the frozen ostriches?”

“Kek! That depends on what your trait is, so I have nothing to say, kek!”

“What? But, you have to tell me! Then, what about the conditions for their self-destruction?”

“The frozen ostriches will self-destruct the moment they feel threatened. The moment they see you, Ha Leeha, they will shatter themselves immediately.”

“Hmm… So, they self-destruct ‘just by seeing’, without any actual attack being necessary.”

“Kek! Kek!”

That means there’s only one way to kill a frozen ostrich. Sneak up on them without being seen and launch a surprise attack. A slight smile curled up on Leeha’s lips. In a sense, that was perhaps the easiest method for him.

‘I could just snipe them, right?’

There was no need to chase after something moving fast. The ostriches couldn’t outrun a bullet, after all. Although he hadn’t found Black Bass yet, what did that matter? ‘Should I purchase a musket?’

It’s not like he was poor. Leeha had much more money now compared to his past as ‘Ha Leeha the Beggar’. Leeha quickly put on a pensive expression, pretending to be deeply in thought.

“Hmm… Not 30, but I could probably kill 50 or even 100…”

“Kek?! Kek! Kek! Is that really possible?! Ram Hwajung earned the title of Fairy by catching 100! Ha Leeha, can you really catch that many?”

Leeha nodded very lightly to the shocked voice of Odobe.

“It depends on the effort. It’s definitely doable… But, well, life is… Sigh… I came here because there might be something I want, killing two birds with one stone. I help a friend, and a friend helps me. It’s mutually beneficial, isn’t it?”

Having figured out how to kill the frozen ostriches, the next step was clear. 『The Bargaining Skill has been activated.』 All that was left was to maximize the outcome. Having emerged from the jaws of Onyx, the black dragon elder, Leeha’s bargaining had already leveled up. The still somewhat naive (?) Bada elephants stood no chance. 『You have succeeded in bargaining!』 “Are you really sure you can do it?”

“Well, we have to see. Now that I know the method.”


“Hmm, when Ha Leeha is this confident, the results usually are… Somehow, I’m getting a bit anxious.”

“Hey, don’t jinx it by saying such unlucky things. If I fail, it’s your loss.”

Leeha shouted as he walked towards the auction house of Gaza City. However, Blaugrunn’s anxiety was not without reason.

“But they die from stress instantly. I wonder if the ostriches, which reacted even to the speed of my teleport, can be dealt with using Ha Leeha’s method? They shatter at any loud sound.”

“I’ve already considered that.”

The speed of the muskets Leeha had used before was nearly the speed of sound. However, unlike sound, which maintains a consistent speed without deceleration, bullets lose energy as they travel further.

‘This means that to make the arrival almost simultaneous with the sound, a distance of around 250 meters must be maintained. But that’s a story of the past.’ In other words, what skill significantly extends the effective range? By increasing the speed of the bullet. Naturally, to extend the effective range in proportion to the normal effective range, the power of the bullet must increase.

“If you use sniper skills and even apply joint fixation, you could hit targets up to 400m away. It’s something we’d need to test, but I think it’s quite feasible, don’t you?”

When he had framed the concept of musket sniping while conversing with Odobe, Leeha had already completed his calculations. When it came to “firearms”, Leeha was at a level where Blaugrunn’s additional advice was unnecessary.

“Moreover, you have four chances, right? Understanding the ‘lens’ description at once, not to mention coolly offering to provide it, was amazing.”

It was impossible to pin down the exact conditions. Immediately, even Leeha couldn’t know the caliber of the lens Bottleneck wanted. Nonetheless, odobe displayed confidence. 『A lens that lets you see far? If you just catch the freezing ostrich, I’ll give you as many as you want, clink!』 “There must already be lenses of various calibers.”

The confidence in simply ‘giving’ rather than ‘making’ was evident. Odobe must know not only the concept of scopes and lenses but also what items were needed and whether they possessed them.

『The Essence of the Eye』 Mission: Kill 100 freezing ostriches (0/100) Reward: 100% Affinity with Ice Walrus paleo and mystical creature Odobe An ice-glass lens 1 Condition for Failure: Failure due to more than 5 freezing ostriches self-destructing Failure Results: -100% Affinity with Ice Walrus paleo and mystical creature Odobe Achievements – The Curse of the Arctic Sea – Ice Walrus Poacher

Ultimately, this was the condition Leeha secured by accepting the quest. Though the number of freezing ostriches to hunt had increased, it was not a major concern.

‘As long as I figure out how to perfectly catch just one.’ Then, wouldn’t it be possible to catch the remaining 99 using the same method without fail? Essentially, it was like being given four ‘whole’ chances to fail.

“Just four times. Thinking of it as ‘even four times’ is already dangerous. If you fail, you’ll likely never get the lens.” he said.

“Hehe, the ‘glass half full’ spirit! Don’t you know it?! Besides, what’s the big deal if we fail? Think anyone else in vast Middle Earth can make such lenses? Just trust me completely, Blaugrunn. Okay?”

“Understood. Do I have any reason to drill you with words?”

Watching Leeha’s unyielding optimism, Blaugrunn shook his head. Sighing yet showing trust as much as Bronze Dragon’s words towards Leeha.

“Excellent! Then let’s get ready right away. Need to refill some black gunpowder, and let’s see where that musket is—［Exquisite Kentucky Musket］ Nice name! Let’s turn all those ostrich jerks into chicken to feast on.”


Although the 『Hummingbird Musket』 of rare grade was two grades higher, the level restriction for equipping this item was about suitable for someone around level 140. Leeha wanted to buy an even cheaper musket, but considering the possibility that a freezing ostrich might not die in one shot, a usable musket was necessary.

‘So, I spent a whopping 29 gold… Driving me crazy.’ It wasn’t that he lacked money, but it was still painful. Additionally, considering how long the auction listing had been up, the likelihood of it not being bought again if he tried to resell it was high.

“Ahhh, purchased!” Leeha purchased the musket worth about 2.9 million won in cash. It was a moment both joyous and sad, realizing how incredible the game mechanics of Middle Earth were.

“Gunpowder, lead bullets, everything complete! Blaugrunn-ssi!”

“Yep, casting teleport!” Whoosh! In an instant, Leeha and Blaugrunn disappeared.

* * *

Meanwhile, near Juma City, a commotion was brewing.

“So, you’re saying the third wave is in just three days?” 『Yes.』

“No… It seems the interval this time is too short. Didn’t it nearly take 2 weeks for both the 1st and 2nd waves combined?” 『The presence of demonic energy emanating from the earth was unmistakable. Slowly but surely, it was converging towards the point where the waves always began.』 As they were investigating the timing of the 3rd monster wave, they sensed something amiss and immediately returned to Juma City, gathering the main guild masters who would be defending against the wave to share information. Since the monster wave was not a competition between nations, the people attentively listening in front of them were experts regardless of nationality. Bobae was the one who broke the silence among the murmuring players.

“There is a silver lining, though.”

“A silver lining?”

“Yes. NPCs from Fibiel are scheduled to be dispatched. Not just ordinary guards, but personnel chosen from each city’s knight orders. On top of that, a small squad of magic artillery and even a branch of the Sacred Knights will be established. They might not be able to stop the ‘wave’ by themselves… but it will definitely be of significant help.”

Bobae had a proud look on her face as if she had accomplished something herself. The eyes of the players from various countries widened in shock at her words.

“The Sacred Knights? Isn’t that the Knight Corps of the Fibiel capital defense forces?”

“Ah! Dame Shin Nara! The NPC guild with Dame Shin Nara in it!”

“Even so, can a nation just freely dispatch a knight corps? With the current situation in Juma City, aren’t we just risking provoking Minis and Kraven…?”

“That’s not what’s important! If they join the fight, the success rate of defending against the wave will increase, and that means the experience points—”

Someone’s voice suggesting they could gain experience points almost for free was buried under the noise.

As the meeting hall became noisy, Alexander let out a sigh, his breath audible. Among all the relieved and joyful people, Kijung was the one who felt a slight unease.

“Bobae, is it okay to disclose that?”


“Of course. I’ve already asked Nara. The dispatchment, that ‘tomorrow’, will arrive soon. Even if I don’t say anything now, everyone will find out tomorrow anyway.”

“Well, that’s a relief then.”

As Kijung sighed in relief, Hyein chuckled. After all, the news Bobae brought was undoubtedly good news.

“The 3rd wave will be advantageous for the Fibiel players. It would be even better if we could coordinate with the Sacred Knights.”

“Right! If Hyein works with the Fibiel magic artillery unit, it would be like having a moving cannon!”

“You don’t have to praise me so much. Bobae, you’re like a catapult that moves like the wind.”

“Oh, what are you talking about? Hyein is really good at making elegant metaphors.”

“Wait, Bobae! Do you mean that—”

“It’s a joke. A joke.”

Hyein looked embarrassed as Bobae teased her even more. Kijung’s eyes darted around, but Bobae stuck her tongue out playfully. Knowing Kijung’s naivety better, they could share such jokes.

“In any case, if these are the words of Alexander the Great and Bailephus, they must be accurate. Our Yellow Dragon will immediately begin spreading the schedule.”

Having heard one piece of bad news and one piece of good news, the players started to disperse one by one. Naturally, this news was also immediately conveyed to Leeha.

Kijung: Hyung! The 3rd wave is starting in 3 days, are you coming?

Leeha: 3 days? Why so soon?

Kijung: I don’t know. But this time, the Sacred Knights will participate, and it seems like Dame Shin Nara will be there too. You must come.

Leeha: Um… I do want to, but…

Kijung: Why? Something came up?

Leeha: Because of a quest… Anyway, I’ll try to make it. Thanks.

Leeha scratched his head as he ended the whisper conversation with Kijung. Standing amidst the harsh winds, he was tightly wrapped in deep green mana vines.

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi, let’s check one more time. Please, step back a bit.

Blaugrunn: Again? The barrier will break if it takes one more hit. Wasn’t that musket from before?

Leeha: An almost adult Juvenile Dragon whining! You won’t feel it even if you get hit.

Blaugrunn: What do you mean! Just because I’m a dragon doesn’t mean it won’t hurt!

(To be continued…)
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Arcane Sniper 593 Leeha had been watching Blaugrunn bouncing from room to room far beyond his ‘Eagle’s Eye’ sight.

Despite being 440 meters away, his swollen expression was vividly etched in his eyes.

“’Eagle’s Eye’ skill has improved, but aren’t I seeing this far because of my synchronization rate at 100%?”

Leeha mused, quickly reloading his Kentucky musket while maintaining his kneeled position.

He had been worried about adjusting to the new weapon, given its different length and weight from Black Bass, but there was no issue at all.

‘Hand-eye Coordination’,

This minute stat increase had provided enough support for him to skillfully handle the newly introduced musket.

-“Anyway, it’s a test, right? Ah, there. Great- okay! Test starting. Distance 450m, please check the sound.”

-“Don’t worry.”

Failure opportunities for the frozen ostrich quest were allowed up to four times. Leeha could have immediately tried it in practice, but decided to proceed with utmost caution.

‘The size is huge, so we won’t fail that easily…’

The size of the frozen ostrich was much larger than that of an ostrich in reality.

Although a real ostrich is considerably big, this one was easily twice the size, rendering the perceived difficulty of hitting it rather low.

However, considering its size, the frozen ostrich, a chicken-hearted coward, would dissolve into ice particles and disappear into ambient snow at the slightest threat, wouldn’t it? ‘I just need to aim without getting caught. If I succeed in this test, the quest will be a piece of cake.’ Click, Leeha pulled the trigger. Bang! As soon as the duller, more muted sound of gunpowder exploding compared to that of Black Bass, he saw Blaugrunn’s barrier shattering into pieces.

Blaugrunn: “The sound almost arrived with the image. If I move any further, the sound will arrive faster, wouldn’t it?”

Leeha: “Okay, at full skill level the distance is 440m, and without skill it’s 210m! Let’s hunt some frozen ostriches!”

The test was completely finished now.

Leeha began to hunt for ostriches with Blaugrunn, releasing his locked joint skill. He’d already been informed about the ostrich’s habitat by Odowbe and the Ice Walrus paleos. If finding the monster was easy and killing it was easy too, wouldn’t time be the only issue in collecting a hundred?

‘It moves fast but it’s large so it won’t be hard to hit. Perhaps I could attend the third wave in three days.’

Leeha started charting out a strict schedule for the next three days, combining plans for after the quest clearance. After clearing the frozen ostrich quest in about half a day, it would take a day more to acquire the lens and get Bottleneck to make a scope out of it. That takes about two and a half days in total.


‘Is the variable the Black Bass? It’s been nearly 3 weeks, would they be able to find it in time?’

Thinking of the Black Bass gave him a headache. Hadn’t he left Black Bass with the bonobo paleos to get it enhanced? The problem was, the chances of it getting damaged or even destroyed and exactly when it would be ready, right now it was just in the analysis stage. Unless all enhancements were completed swiftly, Leeha didn’t expect any significant changes in Black Bass itself.

‘Well, at least if they can locate Black Bass right after the analysis, we should be okay. If there’s no Black Bass, even with a finished scope won’t mean anything… But what if he could utilize Black Bass in the third wave?

Even if the enhancement happened to fail, he could still test with the scope and then hand it back to be re-enhanced later, right? ‘Hmm, that seems to be the best scenario.’

While he was not counting his chickens before they were hatched, Leeha was ready to take a shot at drinking up a bowl of soup!

‘Great! Now, let’s start with ostriches!’

Leeha and Blaugrunn marched towards the frozen ostrich’s habitat with a satisfying smile spread across his face.

Until now, he hadn’t realized. The most important aspect when dealing with frozen ostriches wasn’t the ice property, but rather the ostrich’s property.

* * *

“Mr. Ha, to that side, please.”

“Sure, I’ve got it. Lower your body.”

Despite everything covered in glistening white snow and ice, both Leeha and Blaugrunn were capable of spotting the frozen ostriches. Because of the snowstorm that whirled up at their feet as they raced fast across the ground.

“Do you think you can get it from this distance?”

“He can’t run forever. We need to observe first. How long and where he stops. If he is looking for food, there will be a definite pattern.”

“You really seem like a sniper at times.”

“A sniper, ‘at times’? I always am one!”

As Leeha and Blaugrunn sparred down low, an Arctic Ostrich came to a halt. The pair, who had been closely watching, followed suit.

‘Although I can hit it while it’s running due to the size, it’s better when it’s stationary. From here, the current stop point is about a 600m x 4… maybe 150m. Should I approach closer?’

The maximum distance to load a bullet faster than the gunshot is 440m.

It’s obvious that closer the distance, the higher the success rate of a shot.


Although it was barren with almost nothing, there certainly is a landmark object to remember the terrain. Leeha recorded the location around the lofty point where the ice ostrich stood in his mind.

The ice ostrich pecked the ground with its long neck.

It was looking for food.

“I’ll go closer, Blaugrunn, you stay here.”

“Aren’t you coming?”

“Considerably fewer numbers are better for covert operation.”

With that said, Leeha started to move subtly and covertly.

Blaugrunn grumbled, “I guess I am invisible and unneeded”, but there was no need for him in the sniping, so there was no point in taking him along.

‘Perfect. Now, don’t move. Just wait a little bit longer.’

Suddenly, as Leeha was stalking his first target of 100 ice ostriches’ hunt, he felt that the body of the ostrich standing far away twitched and got rigid.

Although he couldn’t use the skill called “Eagle’s Eye” because it was in the cooldown phase, he was sure something suspicious was going on.

‘What’s going on?

Leeha immediately halted.

The ice ostrich did not move but kept its neck rigidly straight. It remained still for 3 minutes, 5 minutes, 7 minutes…

The current distance was 530m.

Leeha, who had quickly moved 70m closer in rapid stalking pace, still needed to close the distance a bit more for sniping.

‘Why is this happening? Is this part of its pattern too?’

But there should be no sudden cease.

The three ice ostriches previously failed did not stop and only ran.

However, the ostriches did not think about moving even after waiting for a long time.


Leeha eventually thought it was a new pattern of the monster and decided to move again. As soon as he was about to move, keeping down low, he took ‘one more step with his elbow’.

“Urgh?” ‘Rush, rush, rush’

The ice ostrich created a snowstorm and started to run.

In the opposite direction of where Leeha was coming.

When the snowstorm becomes smoke, and the figure of the ostrich is fully covered, Leeha, with a dumbfounded face, had no choice but to stand up.

“…… Why? Why did it suddenly run away?”

“What were you doing? Why didn’t you shoot?”

“No, I wasn’t going to shoot yet… I was measuring the distance, and then it suddenly ran away. Please use a spell, Blaugrunn”, Leeha said, grabbed Blaugrunn’s shoulder after scratching his head.

“What kind of spell?”

“Do you know anything about detection magic? Like creating a map?”

Running all over the vast land known as the ostrich’s ‘habitat’ would be a waste of time.

One must utilize the nearby resources to the fullest.

“It’s a bit of a unique spell that I can’t use. I’d be interested in learning it from you.”

“Um… I thought you had it since you’re a dragon…”

“But I can perform basic detection. Let me try.”

Blaugrunn started casting immediately.

If you knew how to do it, you’d just do it. Ge-ge was pretending he didn’t know, but somehow, Leeha felt a tiny bit betrayed.

Swoosh…! Soon after, Blaugrunn opened his eyes and pinpointed a direction.

“This way, about 1.3 kilometers.”

“Whaaaat?! You know the exact distance?! That’s amazing! Why didn’t you use this skill before!”

“You never asked me to.”

Blaugrunn shrugged nonchalantly, causing Leeha to nod in astonishment.

Dragons were proactive AI NPCs, but to maintain balance between dragon knights and other job classes, they didn’t usually act unless specifically asked or under exceptional circumstances.

Only users who quickly understood the dragon’s capabilities and had the tact and knowledge to demand what they wanted could fully utilize a given dragon.

So, after about thirty minutes of walking in the direction Blaugrunn detected…

Despite moving at a considerable speed, the Frosty Ostrich was nowhere to be seen.

“It’s not coming out? Did it move somewhere?”

“Hmm, I’ll run another scan. It should be easier to trace with mana previously detected.”

Blaugrunn cast the detection magic again, then he looked puzzled.

“Well, the direction is right.”

“But what about the distance?”

“About 1.3 kilometers…

“What? The distance is still the same!”

“It seems to have stopped now. We need to move quickly.”

Blaugrunn, looking bemused, flew ahead of Leeha.

Shwapapa-papapapa-!

In the wake of his flight, the snow on the ground wafted back into the air. Leeha felt an odd sense of unease watching the hurried Blaugrunn.

“Moreover, I am running while you’re just flying!”

Pak! Pak! Pak! Pak!

After a strenuous journey through the snow, Leeha finally caught up with Blaugrunn who was standing still, his face distorted in bewilderment.

“What’s wrong? What happened?”

“It’s… again 1.3 kilometers.”

“Huh? What? You mean it’s still 1.3 kilometers from here?”

“Yes.”

Leeha peered in the direction Blaugrunn pointed to but didn’t see anything.

The cooldown of the Eagle’s Eye skill wasn’t over yet, moreover, due to the Frosty Ostrich’s color matching with the snow, they could barely notice it at long distances.

‘At least running shows the snowstorm…

For some reason, Leeha felt a sense of dread.

“Let’s teleport. Not too close, just about 500-600 meters.”

“Understood.”

Blaugrunn looked slightly annoyed, but he complied with Leeha by promptly casting Mass Teleport.

Shwoooosh o』———-!

The teleport distance was about 500 meters.

The moment the distance of 1.3 kilometers shrunk to 800 meters, a peculiar shriek, intertwined with the wind, came hurtling towards them.

Mixed in the choking cry of the ostrich was the sound of something fracturing, which traveled eerily into their ears.

Blaugrunn cocked his head.

“Hmm? Its mana has disappeared.”

However, Leeha couldn’t even respond.

The dragon wouldn’t know without a system alert, but Leeha’s quest log clearly stated why.

“Damn! I was afraid this might happen!”

“What?”

Leeha looked as if he had been struck with a hammer. His foreboding premonition had come true.

『One Frosty Ostrich has self-destructed.』

“They noticed us! At a distance exceeding 1.3 kilometers!”

There was no other explanation for this.

Either they had been watched or noticed!

The ostrich had set their detection radius as a boundary; whenever they approached, it moved further away, and this repeated. This could only be possible due to its unusually keen senses.

Once the ‘border’ it had set suddenly narrowed, the creature must have felt threatened and self-destructed.
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“So, the mana disappeared because-”

“Yes. The one Blaugrunn detected…, it self-destructed.”

Despite detecting a creature capable of seeing kilometers away without any skills or scopes, Leeha could not feel happy about it.

『Ice Ostrich Self-Destruct Limitation:

1/4』

One chance out of four had flown away, futilely.

* * *

“Can’t believe it, the answer was an ostrich.”

Leeha was browsing the internet when he suddenly grabbed his head in realization. The lens he had desperately been searching for was right here all along.

“Birds generally have good eyesight……. Right, of course. Eagles or hawks for the day, owls for the night! I was just running around confused, but ostriches too-”

They too were birds.

And not just any birds, but giant birds that tower over others in size.

Even the eyesight of ordinary ostriches on Earth can surpass 25.0 in human terms because their small heads, containing almost no brain, are filled with massive eyeballs.

Imagine then, the size of the eyeballs in the Ice Ostrich they were targeting, which was as tall as a giraffe!

Imagining the immense size of its eyeballs, Leeha couldn’t help but flash a wide grin.

“Moreover, the tribe that requested this uses the paleos, known for processing ice as clear as glass.”

Leeha swiveled his chair with a creak.

He had wondered how the Ice Walrus paleos could obtain the material for the lens, but now it was clear that the eyes of the Ice Ostrich itself could serve as the material.

If processed with the technology of the paleo tribe, it literally turns into lenses, and bringing this to Bottleneck would allow them to immediately make scopes.


The equation of quest success equals scope production was perfect, but the problem was that it was tough to feel purely happy about it.

“Ah- but how do we catch it……

While information and knowledge about ostriches could be found on the internet, hunting methods in Middle Earth were non-existent.

Let alone the common ostrich hunting methods, which are mostly from ostrich farms, finding natural hunting methods was challenging, presenting a considerable difficulty.

“No, being too pessimistic isn’t the way.”

Leeha shifted his thinking slightly.

“Though one failed, we tested another for 2km, right? That went well. So, that distance is definitely reliable. Let’s approach it slowly.”

Leeha followed another Ice Ostrich detected by Blaugrunn to a distance of 2km.

The problem came after that.

If the terrain had been rugged, they could have attempted to approach stealthily, but since it was all plains, there was nowhere to hide.

Despite their persistent attempt, they couldn’t cross the 1.3km barrier.

In the end, after maintaining the distance during the chase, Leeha and Blaugrunn were the ones to give up first.

“It’s maddening. Approaching with teleport causes self-destruct, and following across the plains makes our movement too obvious…

Run after it?

Such an option was impossible. The opponent was an ostrich, a bird with the strongest legs.

Even if one were to invest all 3,500 agility into the sub-stat run, it wouldn’t narrow the distance, and even if it did, the ostrich would eventually self-destruct feeling threatened.

“Camouflage!”

The skill that suddenly came to mind soon faded away.

“…was a skill attached to Black Bass.”

『Camouflage』, 『Multi-Warhead Projectile』, 『Mana Evaporation Shot』none of them could be used.


Approaching through teleport wasn’t an option.

Sniping with a musket or similar was out of the question.

Turning Blaugrunn into a dragon to approach from the sky?

‘That would be difficult too.’

Considering the field of view similar to that of horses,Objects nearly resembling a 360-degree sphere, encompassing front, back, left, right, and even top and bottom, will be visibly confirmed.

The mere sight of the dragon suspended in mid-air was enough to cause a high likelihood of self-decomposition among them.

‘How on earth are we supposed to catch this thing?’

Leeha rummaged through his thoughts, frantically gathering more information.

The more time spent outside, the more rapidly time seemed to slip away in Middle Earth.

At this rate, the chance of making it in time for the 3rd wave was becoming increasingly slim.

‘But without any information, entering Middle Earth would be meaningless. And now, there are only three chances left.’

What caught Leeha’s suffering gaze was a smartphone.

He hurriedly ran over to pick it up.

‘Right, that’s it! There might not be any information, but there are seniors!’

Weren’t there people who had already cleared this quest? Without hesitation, Leeha called Ram Hwajung.

The call was answered in no more than two rings.

Hwajung: Oppa!

“Uh, hello, Ram Hwajung-ssi! Do you have a moment to talk?”

Hwajung: Yeah. I’m going to be up all night.

“Um… that might be a bit difficult for me, haha.”


Over the phone, hearing Ram Hwajung’s voice couldn’t have been more welcoming to Leeha.

“Ah, there’s something I wanted to ask. Do you happen to-”

What started with a smile ended with a sigh.

Ram Hwajung was able to thrive there due to the full-blown support from the Hwa Hong Guild using a “Mana Injector”.

Comparing the magical hunting style of magician Ram Hwajung to the musketeer, hai Ha, was impossible, not to mention the vast difference in scale.

“… You froze everything?”

Hwajung: Yes. Blizzard.

“Overdrive”.

To surpass the “Full Mana Charge” state…

To fully load a single spell with mana was already extraordinary.

Moreover, if continual mana was supplied through a “Mana Injector”? It was said to trigger the next stage, “Overdrive”.

The power when a player with a full 100 mana pours more than 200 into a single spell!

Under normal circumstances, this would have been impossible in Middle Earth, not to mention she suffered the aftermath for a while. Yet, all Leeha could imagine was her overpowering figure.

‘Freezing everything within a 2km radius? Insane…

The freezing ostriches would self-destruct, blending with the surrounding snow.

But with snow or anything else, when one simply uses magic to freeze every living and inanimate thing within a 2km radius, even the freezing ostriches had no choice but to be annihilated!

‘It would probably take an Ancient-class dragon to pull that off, right? Maybe the breath of a Silver Dragon clan… No, even their breath doesn’t have that range…

The notion that, in terms of range, this might have been the strongest magic in Middle Earth gave Leeha goosebumps.

‘Anyway, this isn’t realistically helpful.’

Leeha, reluctant to end the call, exchanged more chit-chat with Ram Hwajung.

While his ears and mouth were focused on Ram Hwajung, his eyes were glued to the monitor.

Hwajung: Next time. Go to Korea.

“Ah, you’re coming to Korea? That’s great, I owe you a lot from Hong Kong. Come with your sister. I’ll treat you in Seoul. Last time, I couldn’t fully take you around because I was not well. Korea has lots of great food places. I’ll show you some fun cuisine that you can’t even imagine in Hong Kong.”

Hwajung: Hehe, yeah.

Thinking of Ram Hwajung, who generously gave her all to him alone, Leeha felt a strangely heavy heart.

‘What, treating a kid… She’s just a cute little sister.’

And that, a younger sister with quite an age difference.

To Leeha, who had no siblings, Ram Hwajung held a different kind of significance compared to anyone else around him.

As their sweet call wrapped up,

Leeha was left with a knowledge of ostriches that could rival a farm owner’s and Middle Earth know-how that wasn’t particularly beneficial to him.

“Guess I’ve learned all there is to know, so there’s nothing left but to give it a try?”

With only two and a half days left until the 3rd wave – effectively only half a day of leeway already spent. Oblivious to hunger, as he walked toward the login point for Middle Earth, Leeha braced himself with determination.

“Not a second to waste”, the sniper’s eyes gleamed.

* * *

“So, this is to be expected, huh? 1.8km, the same as before.”

“Indeed. You’ve got sharp eyes. Yes, of course. Ostriches are naturally cowardly. And they’re weak to stress. If you think about it, everything Odoberg gave in the quest was a hint.”

It turned out that Middle Earth had already revealed the characteristics of ostriches.

Despite receiving hints indicating that the nature of ostriches had to be strategically exploited to clear the quest, they hadn’t thought of it on their own.

“It’s easier said than done. How would I know what ostriches are like? The ones I’ve only seen once or twice at a zoo.”

While grumbling as he walked with Blaugrunn, the answer still eluded them. Even at this moment, the Ice Ostrich maintained its distance as it moved.

But this time, it wasn’t merely repeating something they already knew.

Leeha had logged into Middle Earth with relative confidence because he wanted to compare the differences between reality and the game and think of a method.

However, Blaugrunn looked bored.

“Right, right. But nothing’s changed. The distance is still 1.8km, not shortened at all.”

“Well, the sight is sharp and the ears are on the back of its head to hear all sounds. It’s truly surprising, but an amazing bird, right?”

Leeha smiled sheepishly as he spoke.

“Incredible. Thanks to you, Leeha-nim found out that ‘sneaking up with absolute confidence using invisibility magic then sniping’ doesn’t work either.”

Blaugrunn grumbled.

In fact, Leeha was a bit puzzled himself.

He knew about the visual capabilities, but to think the hearing was so exceptional as well.

He thought approaching with invisibility magic would do the trick, but somehow, the Ice Ostrich was fairly accurate in detecting both Blaugrunn and Leeha.

Perhaps it was guessing their location through the crackling sound their steps made on the snow… but he couldn’t be sure.

The critical issue was that they were unable to close the distance.

“We overlooked that it’s not a real ostrich.”

“Eh?”

“Oh, just talking to myself.”

Using the game’s skills to approach? The approach was not wrong, but they had underestimated the Ice Ostrich.

‘Maybe it has a sensory ability to revert the refraction of light created by invisibility back to its original state. Damn, it’s a world where ice ostriches run around, and I underestimated it too much.’

What should he do now?

After his seemingly last resort crumbled, Leeha’s mind went blank.

“1.8km, it’s still the same. Are you going to keep chasing it like this?”

“Moving helps me think. I’m not even sure what to do anymore.”

Leeha meticulously reviewed his skill set, but no clear answer emerged.

As a gust of wind blew past his ears once more, Leeha felt it anew. Musketeer… the cursed limits of this job.

‘Especially against 『Accuracy』, it’s just too much of a disadvantage. Without Black Bass, I’m just easy prey.’

Of course, it wasn’t something to grumble about.

Luger, too, wouldn’t be able to use his various boasted skills without his Cobalt Blue Python. Knowing this, Leeha still felt cornered enough to complain.

“What about a hallucination? Summoning a vision of Bahamut?”

“Just looking at my teleport, if those creatures scatter even before the Lord’s presence, would they even withstand it? Moreover, if it’s the Lord’s physical form, they’d be able to see it from afar, meaning the moment Leeha uses that skill, it would be over.”

“Figures, right?”

In such an open terrain, summoning a vision of Bahamut in the sky? The Ice Ostriches would self-destruct in an instant, turning into more than 200 birds.

“Ah! Zephyr Wind doesn’t work either, and all I have left are skills like Pure Barrier. Even the little guy is useless… it’s driving me crazy.”

“I could turn into a dragon and use my breath.”

“No way. What’s the range of Blaugrunn’s breath?”

“Um… well, it would spot and run away first.”

“If it just runs away, it’d be a mercy. It would self-destruct on the spot.”

Whether Blaugrunn maintained his human form to cast spells, or returned to his dragon form to use his breath, the distance was insufficient. The Ice Ostrich, with its keen sight and swift speed, was indeed a difficult prey to hunt.

(To be continued…)
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“The Bronze Dragon breathes lightning, doesn’t it? Hmm… What if I pour the strongest electric magic onto the snow-covered land?”

Electricity discharges scatter when hitting the ground, but what about when they hit snow?

Like releasing a current in freshwater, might it not electrocute the target?

Leeha pondered this but, as expected, did not find an easy answer.

Distance posed the greatest challenge. There was a high probability that the electricity would be discharged towards other creatures closer than the intended frozen ostrich.

“Another one is running over there.”

A different entity from the frozen ostriches Blaugrunn had detected glanced at Leeha and Blaugrunn before running off somewhere.

The distance was roughly 600 meters, the closest encounter among the entities they had met so far, but sniping was still not an option.

As soon as it started running, the snow and ice on the ground flew into the air, obstructing Leeha’s view.

“Damn it! It’s not like they’re playing with someone else! Running here and there, like training a mutt! Always running away when we try to catch them, always like a… Wait a minute.”

“What is it?”

Blaugrunn asked, but Leeha didn’t answer.

The place where Blaugrunn and Leeha were situated was the habitat of the frozen ostriches.

Since entering this area, they had mostly detected and chased after one ostrich after another.

But now?

‘Were they already out? And this close?’

Moreover, as if it had waited to be spotted by Leeha, it started running away as soon as Leeha recognized the entity.

“Ostriches live in herds.”

“Excuse me?”


“Yeah. Ostriches live in herds, usually around 30 or so.”

“So what?”

“So what? That one there! Looking at us with that cheeky face! Can’t you tell? Full of fear yet behaving like that?!”

“…Could it be, are you saying the ostrich is luring us?”

Ostriches live in groups.

Being cowards, they would extremely guard against any intruders into their dwelling.

So, if one of the entities, the fastest or the bravest, detects the intruders in advance and maintains a suitable distance to lead them in a different direction?

“We’ll have to verify that now. Blaugrunn, make me invisible and lift me up into the air, as high as possible!”

“Understood!”

Even if those being looked at were invisible, if they didn’t move and just ascended vertically, they likely wouldn’t feel much threatened.

Thus, Leeha soared straight up into the sky.

Having a flat terrain meant gaining a vantage point could allow for a far-reaching view.

With Leeha’s usual visibility of about 4.7km, gaining an additional 30 meters in height through Blaugrunn’s Levitation meant?

Depending on the weather and terrain curvature, but under clear weather and flat terrain, this meant achieving a visibility range of nearly 24km.

Of course, that’s the maximum range.

With the human eye, it’s impossible to recognize an object beyond 24km.

“Hehe, ‘the human eye’, maybe, but I am not human now.”

-North-northeast, approximately at a 15-degree angle and 6.5km ahead, multiple strange light reflections detected, presumed to be a group of frozen ostriches! Please, lower me down, heading there right now!

Using the skill “Eagle’s Eye” just then, finding the frozen ostriches was a piece of cake for Leeha. Although unable to discern their appearance or the detailed environment, identifying the sparkling light clusters from their ice-covered bodies was not a problem.

Descending slowly to the ground, Leeha’s eyes sparkled with excitement. Levitation magic isn’t intense flight magic. It’s more akin to hovering in the air than flying.


Although it borrows the power of Blaugrunn, it doesn’t directly affect the offensive power either.

‘If I can just get the scope, and if Black Bass is enhanced…

I could even consider levitated sniping! In this condition, the 『Join Fixation: Lower』 skill is restricted, so there’s some penalty to the range increase, but if it’s not ultra-long-distance sniping, it doesn’t matter!

“Hahaha! It’s possible, isn’t it?! Blaugrunn-ssi!”

“Wow! Why are you suddenly acting like this?!”

“Why? Because it’s pretty, our walking sniping tower!”

Leeha hugged Blaugrunn tightly and rubbed his head vigorously with his cheek.

Dragons are versatile. It’s clear there’s no need to recklessly order them around with just magic.

While preparing for the Freezing Ostrich quest, Leeha finally developed the ability to properly combine the characteristics of Blaugrunn and himself as a sniper.

“Sure enough, whatever method you use, it’s clear they can perceive invisibility.”

“Hmm, I’m of juvenile rank, but that shouldn’t be the reason. I, too, want to dissect them at least once. Creatures that can detect invisibility without any special magic are unheard of.”

“Are there none on the Lope continent?”

“There are a few. Creatures that use ultrasonics to perceive their surroundings, for instance, don’t relate to invisibility because they reflect light.”

“True, that makes sense.”

However, unlike bats or dolphins, freezing Ostriches ‘see invisible objects’, which piqued Blaugrunn’s curiosity.

“Is it okay for them to run off in all directions like that?”

“They’re running off in different directions and making a lot of noise while they’re at it.”

Leeha cautiously surveyed the surroundings.

The freezing ostriches, having noticed the two, started running in all directions as if panicked.

Although they were still about 2km away from the initially discovered nest, the creatures seemed desperate.


‘If I didn’t know about ostriches, I would have failed chasing after each one.’

The vomiting-like cries are said to be made only by the males, meaning all those trying to lure Leeha and Blaugrunn were males from the flock.

If Leeha reached their dwelling, how would they react? Leeha proceeded solidly, dismissing the Freezing Ostriches’ ‘temptation.’

From west to north, from east to south, the number of creatures running around to surround Leeha and Blaugrunn steadily increased. Naturally, they were narrowing the distance in an effort to lead them in their direction.

‘This is precisely the hunting method of ostriches.’

Do not chase ostriches.

『Crystal of the Eye』

Description: Catching them by running after them would definitely not be easy. As always, Middle Earth had given all the hints.

‘Come on, to deduce all that from merely a word in a nearly ten-line quest description seems a bit much.’

Leeha shook his head disapprovingly.

The closer they got, the freezing ostriches approached Leeha and Blaugrunn with anxious cries.

Now, the distance to the nearest creature was merely about 500 meters.

Even the initially targeted freezing ostrich dwelling started to come into view.

“Look ahead! There, about ten or maybe thirty are living in a flock, right?”

“Hmm, hmm. Then there are about twenty around us trying hard to wag their tails. Okay, let’s go close and squash them in one go! Up to 1km ahead!”

“Understood-”

“-Hmm? Leeha-nim?”

Just as Leeha was about to run ahead with a smile, a male freezing ostrich let out a long cry.

It was a suffocating tremble, unable to either expel or swallow the sound, but it was much louder than any noise heard before.

“What’s with them, why are they like this?”

“Suddenly… the stance has changed?”

Leeha and Blaugrunn looked around. The movements meant to lure them by running around had changed.

Even the freezing ostrich, which had been far away, came running swiftly to adjust the distance with the other freezing ostriches and Leeha.”Surrounded?”

“You said you’ve studied a lot about ostriches, right? Was there never a case when these cowards attacked like this?”

When Blaugrunn began to cast his magic, a fact also emerged in Leeha’s mind.

There was one instance when the cowardly ostrich would attack a target.

“…When they’re protecting their eggs.”

That the ten or so ostriches in front were ‘protecting their eggs’ became apparent.

As soon as Leeha lifted his musket, the ice ostriches that had been surrounding them in a circle charged.

Their size was comparable to that of a real-life giraffe.

It was only natural that the frozen ground trembled and snowflakes flew about.

Overwhelmed by the rush of these formidable beasts, Leeha trembled for a moment. However, it wasn’t a tremor born of fear.

“Ah, I appreciate this. You’ve come all this way.”

“Is it okay to attack?”

“Well, those protecting their eggs wouldn’t self-destruct just because they got a bit scared, would they?”

“I think so too.”

Leeha and Blaugrunn looked at each other and smiled.

Having perfectly grasped the way to conquer the quest involving the ice ostriches and being able to perform it flawlessly, nothing could scare them anymore.

“Then let’s finish them off—-”

“Understood! Energy Wave!”

The loaded musket and musket-pistol, along with the turquoise mana orbs gathered in Blaugrunn’s hands, all fired simultaneously.

With a burst and the sound of a large glass window shattering, the last ice ostrich was obliterated.

The ice ostriches that had attempted to approach Leeha, alternating between his newly purchased Kentucky musket and musket-pistol, didn’t stand a chance.

“It feels like clay shooting, quite fun.”

“Juvenile dragons still new to handling mana could also use this as good targeting practice. Their movements are complex, and they’re fast…”

“Eh? Was this practice useful for you too, Blaugrunn?”

“No. I meant the other juvenile-class dragons!”

As Blaugrunn bristled,

Leeha burst into laughter. After all, for him, who was close to adult-class, practice for mastering mana was no longer necessary.

What need was there for further practice in a situation where magic hit all the ice ostriches attempting to approach in a zigzag through the snowstorm?

“Alright, alright, no need to get worked up. Ah! Can you check over there to see something that looks like the eggs they were guarding?”

“Ch, lately you’re just teasing me. Got it!”

Muttering under his breath but efficiently following orders as always, Blaugrunn moved forth.

Leeha sent Blaugrunn towards where the female specimens’ bodies lay and headed towards the scattered bodies of the male specimens nearby.

‘So, this is what happens when they don’t self-destruct and die.’

Not the light sky-blue, semi-translucent ostriches reflecting the sunlight, but ash-gray bodies cloaked in the shadow of death were what Leeha saw as he knelt down.

“Hmm, if there’s anything to take from this-”

Though touching the ostrich bodies was cold enough to stick to the skin, Leeha carefully started cutting and peeling off anything that could be collected.

Middle Earth had a system close to semi-automatic looting, so depending on what and how one dissected, different monster parts could be collected.

After about ten minutes of meticulously dissecting the ice ostriches…

『You have acquired a special ice ostrich feather.』

『You have acquired boots with special ostrich talons.』

The special feather was a material that, when added to fabric, reduced ice attribute damage received. It was the most common material item obtained from the entire body of the ice ostriches.

‘Considering I already have Jellypong, having so many of these won’t be of any use to me.’

The boots were also fairly common, obtained from one out of every four creatures.

Being incredibly large creatures, an item had been created by cutting from the ankle to the talon area, allowing players to wear them immediately.
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“It’s just at the level of wanting to sell it off, what I really need is—”

Leeha, who had been anxious not to see the desired passage, finally heard some good news.

『You have obtained the rare crystal body of the Freezing Ostrich.』

“Yes! Yessssss! Got the crystal body!”

The item that wouldn’t drop no matter how much he sliced at the corpse’s head! Leeha finally managed to acquire the eye of the Freezing Ostrich.

“Whoa! What kind of eye is this! It’s bigger than a basketball!”

Leeha, lifting the eye high with both hands, looked almost like an athlete hoisting a championship trophy.

『Rare Crystal Body of the Freezing Ostrich』

Description: The eye of the freezing ostrich, among the bird species, boasts the best vision. To hunt for food in the frigid tundra and protect themselves from predators, their exceptional vision is unmatched. They can spot how ants are moving at a distance of 85m and detect intruders up to 20km away. Moreover, their eyes, capable of refracting and re-refracting light, are known to partially dispel invisibility magic.

The item description was more than satisfactory for Leeha.

“85m away ants?! Sounds unbelievable, but who cares!”

The part about spotting something from up to 20km away!

Of course, Leeha was well aware of the loophole in the item description.

This was only under the condition that he could see 20km away when given the right environment.

Especially in places like mountainous terrains where objects blocking the view are present, no matter how far you can see, the view would inevitably be obstructed.

“But—But! If I have Blaugrunn-ssi! Even some transparency is visible. How does that work? Well, I’ll know once I make it! The scope’s a sure thing now!”

When combined with levitation magic, just what kind of power would this wield! Leeha felt like he had met the item that would bring his vague ideas into reality.

“Alright! Yeah! Yes! Yeah!”

Dancing to this bizarre chant was Leeha, towards whom Blaugrunn was approaching. He was letting out a light sigh mixed with a smile.


“Are you that happy? You’re not a kid.”

“What do you mean, not a kid!? Heh, of course, I’m happy!”

“Then, you’re going to like this too.”

“Huh?”

Blaugrunn snapped his fingers with a flick, making a *snap*! sound.

Something nearly the size of Blaugrunn’s torso was floating behind him and approaching.

More splendid than its oval shape was the sight of its insides completely visible. Although Leeha instantly guessed ‘what’ it was, it was not a dreadful sight.

He had only expected to see the diligently growing baby of the Freezing Ostrich inside the egg, yet, what were all these countless rainbows now in front of his eyes?

“Wow…

Could this happen if you filled a prism inside?

Plus, the rainbows spread out in all directions only within the egg,

Not extending outside the egg.

“While I’m not sure about other things, this one thing I can tell you. His Highness will definitely love this.”

“Huh? What’s it do?”

An item for crafting?

Definitely not a wearable item. Or since it’s an ‘egg’, could it somehow be edible?

As if he already knew all of Leeha’s speculations, Blaugrunn shook his head.

“This, in itself, has no effect.”

“Then why would I like it?”

“If the Silver Dragon tribe rushes for it with fiery eyes.”


“Silver Dragon—Ah, aah?!”

If the Silver Dragons strongly desired it, wouldn’t Leeha have to secure the ‘price’ for it no matter what!

“Blaugrunn-ssi! This, it’s like hitting the jackpot!”

“Keke, does that mean Leeha-nim has been a scoundrel up until now?”

“No, I mean, cancel that. The Moon of Trade! The Miracle Negotiator!”

Though it might make people suffer quite a bit, middle-Erth also teaches that equivalent rewards come.

With over 100 million registered players, this game certainly had its reasons.

Holding onto Blaugrunn and joyfully hopping around, Leeha opened the quest window to check the remaining numbers.

『The Crystals of Snow』

Content: Slaying of 100 frozen ostriches (32/100)

“Where is another flock of ostriches? Let’s detect them right away!”

“Understood!”

Though one can’t catch them one by one, it’s possible when they’re in flocks.

The pace of hunting frozen ostriches, which requires a different approach than typical monster hunting, began to pick up.

“Is everyone ready? It starts first thing tomorrow morning, so hurry up!”

Ha-!

With Chiyou leading the charge, not even the smallest mistake was allowed. She managed her loyal subordinates who followed her even to the New Continent, sometimes with a smile, sometimes with anger.

Among them were a very few trustworthy members from the Shinobi, and also members from 『Yamato』 following her commands.

“Keh, hurry up all you want, but in the end, aren’t we just cleaning up after you? The wave is only for you and your minions.”

Step, step.


A tall shadow loomed beside her.

Without even needing to look, knowing who it was, she replied without wasting time to turn her head.

“Cleaning up after us? Hmm, last I checked, someone who just got overtaken in rankings shouldn’t be the one talking.”

“That’s because I did a good job.”

“Oh really? Could Igor and those brainless Czars have overtaken the rankings by themselves? Why didn’t it happen before then? Don’t pick a fight now when I’m busy.”

Chiyou made a shushing sound.

Igor continued to laugh heartily, but the faces of other men beside him weren’t as cheerful.

“Brainless? To dare speak such nonsense to us-”

Shiiiiik-!

One of the Czar’s guild members lunged at Chiyou, only to be swiftly flung away.

‘Huh, that’s unexpected.’

Chiyou had anticipated someone from the Czar would attack, and she was ready to potentially kill him, so she looked ahead with a surprised expression.

“Don’t start trouble.”

It was Igor who had tossed aside the guild member.

He hadn’t even needed to swing his blade, simply using the strength of his arm to pin the guild member down.

“Igor! This kind of treatment is unfair to us!”

“Indeed! Consider your ‘situation’ carefully! Why you were able to come this far!”

“What you should be doing is retaking the first place in the rankings as soon as possible-…”

The Czar’s members were the ones taken aback by his response. Their faces flushed more with humiliation from Chiyou’s insults than from their reproach.

“Keh keh keh, I know, I know, my friends.”

Igor merely responded with laughter. It was an open secret that Russia supported one character nationally for gaming pursuits.

That Igor was the chosen one, and that the state-sponsored supporters were members of the Czar guild were widely speculated by users.

Thus, their relationship was inseparable.

Czar was exactly the one who, behind the scenes, took care of everything from item farming, subsidies, to controlling hunting grounds, just so Igor could concentrate solely on leveling up.

“So, this is what irritates me. According to this tiny Chiyou’s words… why do we level up faster here than when you guys are pushing?”

At least, that had been the case up to now.

As Igor growled in a low voice, the Czar members clamped their mouths shut. They couldn’t miss the sudden change in atmosphere.

Compared to other Czar members who could not control their emotions, a certain calm individual nodded and spoke.

“I will report this to the guild master.”

“Report? Ha! But what will you say? ‘The current priority target is leveling up smoothly, reaching the 3rd rank, and will strive to reach the 1st rank as soon as possible.’ What else is there to say, vice-guild master?”

“Besides results, there’s plenty to say about attitude. Since it’s the guild master’s will, anyway.”

“Ka-kak, those who can’t even support properly are just full of talk.”

Igor spat on the ground.

The Czar’s members stared at his retreating back.

The most surprised person to witness this was Chiyou herself. Not just because he had protected her, but ‘why would he take such an action specifically for her?’

Hmm… If the Czars are here… So that was the reason why things were dispersed. A management target number one, you say?’

Could it mean there are more users like Igor?

Maybe that’s why the Czar has decentralized, managing a small number of people each.

However, in terms of rankings, aside from Igor, there are only a few Russian users in the Top 100. They are significantly less important than Igor, who is in the Top 10.

“Chiyou! If you leave me behind again, just do as you please! Kya kya kya!”

Chiyou had another thought as she watched Igor shouting without turning back. There could be a hidden meaning behind the words and actions Igor and the Czar had shown in front of her.

‘It seems like a protest to take him with them.’

Maybe they want to convey an image that our team can’t be stopped!

Or could it be a hint that there’s another management target, trying to divert her focus?

‘Or perhaps… they’re trying to entice me to come closer for infiltration into the Shinobigumi.’

Regardless of the reason, to Chiyou, the actions of Igor and the Czar felt laughably like an ‘act.’

The thought of these giant figures groaning and planning such a show just to get a bit of core information seemed funny to her.

“Let’s assign you a more important task than just coming along, Igor!”

Chiyou notified Igor with a light-hearted voice.

However, her eyes were already scanning the Czar’s users. Although they all maintained poker faces, they couldn’t fool Chiyou.

‘This is great, stimulating both from the outside and now from the inside.’

She shuddered with delight.

For her, a battle of wits and strategy was exactly what she had always desired. A new person quietly approached the joyous Chiyou.

“What about me? Last time, you mentioned coming along!”

“Ah, Prea.”

An elf with snow-white eyes rubbed her right foot against her left leg and smiled gently.

Chiyou grabbed her shoulder and nodded vigorously.

“Of course, of course. We need Prea to go and check things out.”

“Yay! Ah, truly, being here, setting up this fortress, only to make various requests to the spirits without even getting a chance to breathe fresh air has been quite stifling! It’s such a relief to get out this time. I even managed to secure 10th place in the rankings, but had nowhere to really use my strengths. I thought I was going to die of boredom. Oh! So, does this mean we’re going with 『Toon』? Is there anything special I need to prepare?”

As Prea bounced around jubilantly, her rapid-fire speech continued without pause. Watching the spirited and chatty her, Chiyou managed her expression as best as she could.

“No special preparation needed, just be your usual self.”

“Got it! Hehe, then who shall I take along, hmm~”

Chiyou’s eyes sparkled as she watched Prea walk away, drawing out spirits in a flurry of chatter.

A whisper then reached her.

It was Sasuke, keeping watch over the users from the shadows.

* * *

Sasuke: Are you sure about this, oka-san?

Chiyou: About what?

Sasuke: I still don’t think we can trust Prea.

Chiyou: Ufufu, do you think I don’t know that?

Sasuke: Ha, ha! My apologies.

Hearing Sasuke’s flustered voice, Chiyou smiled lightly. The sharp gaze she had while observing Prea had already disappeared.

‘But Sasuke has a point. Igor and the Czar are actually easier to understand… Fools with clear motives are the easiest to predict.’

Knowing what they want makes predicting their actions easier.

But here, in Chiyou’s New Continent fortress, the most troublesome opponent was Prea.

‘At first, I thought she was just a fool lusting after a higher rank.’

Because it was impossible to understand what she truly wanted.

Her often-observed behavior of summoning and chatting with spirits alone; too far to hear clearly and, more often than not, unseen by regular users due to the spirits’ invisibility.
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Chiyou had always known that spirits could become invisible if they weren’t exerting their power. But was playing Middle Earth merely to chat with NPCs, or was she playing the fool?

While the strength of Prea had been borrowed for securing positions in the fortress, her combat abilities had never been tested. More importantly, being suspected by her own allies, Chiyou decided it was best to bring Prea along.

“What about Igor? Say the word, and I’ll dig into his past for you.”

“No need for that. He’s boasting about his rank at third place, obviously fishing for us to bite the bait. It’s Faust we should worry about, not him.”

“Really?”

“Didn’t Faust fail to climb the rankings this time?”

The recent tumult in the community over the ranking upheaval had left Faust unchanged. Despite acquiring a substantial amount of experience and levels, he had not seen any notable shifts.

“Should we approach Faust then…”

“No, we can’t neglect him. It would be unwise to offend the only one among us who has had contact with Le.”

Faust had once received power directly from Bluebeard. It was easier to seek out the elusive Bluebeard by utilizing someone with firsthand experience, thought Chiyou.

After all, as the saying goes, a smart rabbit digs three burrows.

“If even the Shinobigumi couldn’t find it, we’re probably facing a limitation not yet discovered by regular users. If this is some sort of trick, there might be only one condition to unravel it.”

What if the condition to find Rey was being a user who had contact with him?

Chiyou suspected that having had contact with Rey was a likely condition.

“Leave the soul gathering to Faust. I was going to ask Igor, but since Faust is a necromancer, he should handle it well. Assign Igor as Faust’s assistant.”

“What? But that’s one of the most critical aspects of our agreement with Toon…”

“It’s about showing trust. Encourage a direct conversation with Rey while you’re at it.”

Chiyou was among the gamers who meticulously navigated the systems of Middle Earth.

“I understand. Also, about the Musketeer Academy NPC from Fibiel you mentioned…”


“Oh, how did that go? Is there a connection?”

“It seems so.”

“Why the uncertainty?”

“Browless was originally meant to be included in the New Continent Knight Order dispatched by Fibiel. However…”

Sasuke’s voice darkened, the fear of not fulfilling Chiyou’s directive on time palpable.

“Rotzak blocked it.”

“Rotzak? The Mage Squad Chief? Hmm… Alright then.”

“Yes?”

“I said, alright.”

“Right! I’ll continue the investigation.”

“Did you ask our spy in the mage squad?”

“Yes. But we couldn’t proceed further. Due to his inclusion in the New Continent dispatch mage squad…”

“Ah, maybe I should have planted a couple more spies. Well, it could still be useful. Anyway, good job.”

“Thank you! I’ll also send the monthly financial statements. A tavern was sold this week…”

“Okay, leave that to me. Just email it. Thanks.”

After ending the whisper with Sasuke, Chiyou reflected on the suspicious link between Browless and Rotzak.

“That old fox blocked it? Does it mean he doesn’t want Browless to encounter those two NPCs? So, the three NPCs have a deep connection.”

This revelation only deepened the perceived connection.

“Ah, Luger, Ha Leeha, Kidd, and two unknown NPCs, including Browless.”

She had a perfect grasp over the setup of the User Trio versus NPC Trio.


“The two from the New Continent hold a horizontal relationship with Bluebeard, the control tower remains unidentified…”

Chiyou had a vague idea about the future direction.

“Finding them and acquiring information about the control tower first grants the upper hand.”

The conflict was not just between the human alliance of the Old Continent and the Demon King’s Army.

To truly gain power as the third force, one had to break through the midst of their battle.

Could they stand shoulder to shoulder with the united force of all users and monsters in Middle Earth?!

“Haah…”

Chiyou shivered, her face flushed with excitement. At the edge of her vision, something sparkled.

“Huh?”

She was looking at an alley in the residential area for NPCs within the fortress.

Only a few garbage bins for NPCs were placed haphazardly in the dark alley.

“What’s this…? A skill? Who did it?”

It was a speck of light so small and fleeting that she could’ve mistaken it for a trick of the eye or a brief sparkle.

Chiyou glanced briefly at the spot.

But soon, she shrugged and turned away.

With a barrier of transparency wrought from the fusion of spirits and magic enveloping the area, intrusion from outside was virtually impossible.

“The tamer blinded by love in the skies… It couldn’t have deceived me.”

Chiyou waved her hand towards the sky.

Where she thought was nothing, Yoyo emerged, riding a winged pony, its face breaking into a smile.

Just like Leeha and the users growing, those on Chiyou’s side found their own ways and means, steadily growing in strength.


“Is it the third wave now…

With the break of dawn, Juma City was once again bracing for another wave of monsters.

Tension rippled through the users lined up in front of Juma City in the early morning.

“Here they come.”

“Is it just me? It feels like the number of giant monsters has increased…”

Since the distance to the darkened horizon was about 1km, it was impossible for regular users to accurately determine the number or type of monsters.

However, monsters of a completely different kind, ranging from at least 15m to about 30m in size, were vaguely visible.

“Ugh, does an increase on their side mean an increase on ours too? It’s never easy, is it?”

“This event is strange in itself. Middle Earth wouldn’t want the users to completely annihilate the Demon King’s Army, right? Right, Nara-ssi?”

Kijung scratched his head as Bobae looped her arms through his.

Although it seemed like any other day of preparation for battle, today was special because of a particular group.

“Phew… It’s been a while since we’ve had a battle this large, but I’m still nervous—”

And it wasn’t just one person, but close to a hundred.

All clad in shining armor and draped in white cloaks.

“—we have to do it right?”

The Sacred Knights had sent a delegation of 101 members.

Their mere presence was enough to overpower and overwhelm most mid-sized guilds in the area.

Shin Nara constantly scanned the surroundings, even while watching the Sacred Knights.

Bobae couldn’t miss the movement of her eyes.

“Geez, still not here.”

“What, what is it!?”

“Don’t play dumb. Kijung! Leeha still hasn’t arrived, right?”

“Ah, Leeha? He said he’d log in soon. I’ll tell him to meet Nara-ssi first when he arrives.”

“Never mind! Just—don’t. Please.”

Shin Nara waved her hands in panic, obviously not disliking Kijung’s consideration, but ‘to that extent’ was again a woman’s psychology that neither Leeha, who was late even today, nor Kijung, who wondered why she was upset, could understand.

“Giggle… Anyway… I’ll join the Mage Squad.”

“Ah, Hyein. Right, you’re moving with them this time?”

“Yes, Kay. I have something I want to test. Fifteen people are dispatched from the Mage Squad, and I need to check their power too.”

“Alright. Call if it gets dangerous.”

Kijung called out to Hyein as he set off alone.

Hyein couldn’t help but smile warmly at him.

“How does a guild master protecting a guild member even make sense? But thanks, Kay.”

“It doesn’t matter if it’s not a guild war. It’s a must!”

Hyein felt a kind of admiration for Kijung, who was showing a side of himself that he had never shown while being a guild master.

『Ahhhh』

The distant growling of Toon heightened the tension among the players.

“Wha?! So soon?”

“Their advance is fast this time! Get into positions, everyone!”

While the guild members were frantically preparing for battle, the Shin Nara and Sacred Knights stood out unmistakably.

“All members of the Sacred Knights, prepare for battle! This is the real deal! Group into teams of five, a total of 20 teams! Death will not be forgiven! For Fibiel, for the glory of the King!”

For Fibiel!

For the glory of the King——-!

Whoooosh……!

The Sacred Knights, emitting a pure white light, were ready for battle in an instant, sufficiently capturing the attention of the players.

“Nara, this must be so embarrassing for you.”

“Shh, quiet. There’s nothing I can do about it.”

While Shin Nara and Bobae were giggling and teasing each other, a dark shadow cast over them.

“Though from an enemy nation, that was remarkable valor.”

“Alexander, is that you?”

“In the siege of Juma City, we must gather the strength of humanity beyond nations, mustn’t we, comrade?”

『The common good is of greater value than any nation’s borders. It’s only natural.』

“Then we must demonstrate our justice, our good.”

『Of course. Even if only to enlighten Toon for their foolishness three times over.』

Flap-flap———

『We must show them our power.』

Kyaaaaah——–!

The Ancient Gold Dragon’s single roar washed away all the tension and anxiety of the players.

“Let’s go.”

『We’re off.』

Woosh-!

With Alexander and Bailephus leading the charge with their offensive defense, the third Monster Wave began.

“Do concepts always receive such welcoming responses? It’s my first time seeing Alexander like this.”

“I know, right? He seems nicer than he looks.”

That Bobae and Nara could so casually backbite (sort of) was likely an unexpected turn for Alexander.

As the third wave of battle was about to commence, a minor commotion was taking place at the warp gate of Juma City.

“Ah, I’m late, so late! Blaugrunn-ssi! Please use Haste!”

“Seriously, I can’t live because of Leeha.”

“What do you mean can’t live, hurry up!”

“Oh fine, ‘Haste'”

Swoooosh-!

A verdant flash, and Leeha’s body shot forward as if launched. As he dashed, stirring up dust, something on his shoulder clattered.

“This long, dark weapon and this large, thick item are just perfect to test out!”

“…Is it just me, or does that sound oddly strange?”

“Pfft! What are you thinking about, Blaugrunn-ssi!?”

Leeha turned, face flushed, looking back at Blaugrunn.

However, the face of the innocent youth showed no signs of untoward thoughts.

“Huh? What thoughts? It’s because of your description, like the forelimb of a monster.”

“Oh! A monster’s forelimb? Is that so?”

Feeling a bit embarrassed, Leeha reconsidered his phrasing.

‘Long and dark weapon and the large, thick item placed upon that weapon’

There was no need to specify what it was.

‘Couldn’t enhance it, but… It’s enough. Let’s start with a scope test!’

Loading the magazine and pulling the bolt, the cold sensation thrilled Leeha. The joy outweighed the regret at this moment.

“Include me too! For my experience points———!”

After clearing the Freezing Ostrich quest and overcoming the Bottleneck, the “Heroic Dwarf-Made Ultra High Precision Scope” was firmly attached to the “Legendary Black Bass.”

It was the moment Leeha’s secret weapon, which would provide a wider and further range than Rubini’s maps or Blaugrunn’s detection magic, was born.
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“The numbers of gigantic monsters aren’t the only things that have increased! The strength of the wave monsters has changed too—Dodge!”

ROOOOOAAAR———!

Three Cyclops swung their weapons simultaneously.

Classified as large monsters, each swing of their clubs exponentially increased the number of users stitching through the air.

While tank-type job classes could survive a critical hit without dying instantly, those in close-range assassin job classes often turned to ash.

“Those injured, retreat to the back! Recover and get your buffs reapplied! 『SANCTUS』!”

FWOOSH-!

As if a spotlight had shone down from the sky, sunlight focused towards the direction of the woman’s voice. At the same time, the sound of angelic trumpets caused users’ ears to twitch.

“This voice-”

“It’s the Saintess! Raphaela is behind us!”

SHRIEK!

Raphaela, the Saintess from the expedition to the New Continent, had cast a wide-range holy magic skill that astounded the users.

“H, how is the HP recovery speed so fast?!”

“That’s not all, just being under this light applies an additional five kinds of buffs.”

“Truly, the Saintess!”

Her magic definitively proved the concept that a single healer could change the battlefield, as it empowered the users to rally against the monster wave once more.

“Stay strong, everyone!”

“Of course, saintess!”

“With Lady Raphaela here, how could we possibly die!”


Hearing the users’ vigorous shouts, raphaela smiled, though it was to mask her anxious expression.

‘For now, morale has been boosted, so it should be fine…’

But the third wave wasn’t as easy.

She had participated in the first and second waves as well. Despite a significant increase in the quality and quantity of users for this third wave, the pressure from the monsters was twice as strong as before.

“Bobae! Have we really been overcoming these all along? 『Contre-Attaque』!”

『Gigantic Arrow』! No, this—this level wasn’t like this before. They’ve become too strong!”

Bobae’s fired arrow expanded rapidly as soon as it left the bowstring.

An ogre staggered as it was hit by the arrow, now comparable in size to a human cannonball, and its throat was slit by a coordinated attack from the Sacred Knights and the Fibiel Knights united.

“Gasp!”

“Ha!”

With nothing but their vigorous shouts and movements, which required no orders or special commands, they greatly supported the users.

“We would have been in danger without the knights this time.”

“Phew… The hypothesis that the knights have become stronger since joining us is gaining ground.”

WHOOSH!

A flaming sword instantly struck eight critical points.

The target was a High-Troll, a large monster known for its medium attack power but extraordinary healing capabilities, making it a dreaded opponent, especially for sword-wielding users.

Cutting, slicing, and stabbing, the High-Troll, which usually healed its wounds quickly, now screamed in panic.

“Kyat?! KYAAAAAAAH-!”

“Fearful because you cannot heal, monster?”

“Wow… What did that person just do?”


“Seems like he burnt the wound areas so it can’t heal?”

Of course, avoiding High-Trolls was typical for ordinary users. However, to those users who knew the ‘technique’ to block the monster’s healing ability, it was a valuable source of experience.

As Tale leaped to behead the High-Troll with his flaming sword, another monster revealed itself from his side.

A monster that looked as if different species were hastily stitched together, its grotesque form intimidating the users—it was a 10-meter class large-type!

“A patchwork! A patchwork monster beside us!”

“Oh no, 『Wind–”

“Yikes! Tale oppa! 『Explosion–”Tale and Bobae hastily tried to react, but it was already too late.

“Karararara!”

The arm of the ragged monster, thrown back, was about to tear through Tale just before it could stretch out.

“Wind Barrier!”

“Explosion Arrow!”

Swoosh…

Whoosh!

In mid-air, Tale’s wind barrier was created, and Bobae’s explosive arrow was fired, but both skills proved to be of no use.

The wind barrier merely fluttered in the air, and Bobae’s arrow pierced through an empty space and flew away.

“Huh?”

“What just happened?”

Woosh…

The ragged monster, in the midst of swinging its arm, fell backwards.

A large hole was present in the head of the monster, which already turned ash-gray.


“Could it be-”

Bang!

The sound of a gunshot, cutting through the chaos of the battlefield, provided a refreshing relief to Tale, Bobae, and a few other players.

“Finally!”

“Always the last minute, huh!”

“Where, where did the attack come from, hyung!”

They looked around for Leeha but could not find him.

The distance between Leeha and their location was roughly 1.5km!

Above the gates of Juma City, on the city walls, the players manning the defensive weapons looked up in the air in astonishment.

“Oh, sorry. Was it too loud?”

“What exactly did you do?”

“Isn’t that Leeha?”

“No, no, I was a bit late. Ha-ha, I just ‘saw’ it since my friend seemed in danger and went a bit overboard. Cheer up, everyone!”

Leeha, with an awkward smile, waved at the players. He tried to swim through the air like a frog doing breaststroke, but his body wouldn’t move.

“Ahh… I really can’t move on my own.”

“That so? Levitation is nice but inconvenient.”

“Let’s go.”

Blaugrunn snapped his fingers and Leeha’s body began to slowly move. Like a boy carrying a giant balloon, it was Blaugrunn who made it happen.

“There seems to be nobody on this side of the wall.”

“It’s good but too conspicuous.”

Only when they reached almost the outer edge of the lined city walls did Leeha finally relax.

“Leeha, you asked for it and now you complain.”

“No, it’s not a complaint? It’s nice though~”

Leeha flirted with Blaugrunn in mid-air.

The combination of Levitation and sniping they experienced while hunting the ice ostriches, essentially a “Mobile Sniping Tower”, proved to be immediately effective.

‘There’s nothing in the way upfront, no terrain interference… This is totally amazing.’

However, the regret was that the monster wave battlefield was not the best place to appreciate this ‘amazing’ discovery.

“It feels like all the humans from the old continent are gathered here. There seem to be more people than in the human capital city we went to with Leeha.”

“Well, that place is a city so it’s hidden, but here it’s an open plain, so it feels like that. But, you’re not entirely wrong.”

“The terrifying thing about humans must come from this enormous number.”

Blaugrunn murmured in amazement at how many users were present in front of Juma City. With a total registered user count of 100 million, one could wonder about the number of concurrent users.

‘Didn’t an article last time mention the highest concurrent users exceeded 20 million? Maybe now it’s at least 10 million?

Especially since this wave, being the 1st and 2nd one, had spread its fame far and wide.

To play smoothly in the new continent, the minimum requirement is said to be at least level 230. However, isn’t this time just a special case?

Literally, even those who have passed level 200, or are around level 190, would have gathered, risking danger, just to gain some experience points. Countless players would have done so.

“If we say that’s about 5% of the simultaneous online users… That’s 500,000 people. Although, in reality, it wouldn’t reach that number.”

Leeha, having joined from the second wave, could not estimate precisely, but it was said that the number of participants in the second wave had nearly doubled compared to the first wave.

As many benefited from the second wave, it was clear that the current third wave had increased by tens of percent more than before.

“Having been in the military, I got pretty used to counting in group units… But counting this is simply impossible, not in company or battalion terms at least.”

Leeha didn’t even dare to attempt counting, however, seeing the mass of people that filled the plains black, and the likewise numerous monsters, made his head spin.

“Still, it feels rewarding to have gone hunting those Ice Ostriches.”

“Definitely! Blaugrunn-ssi, do you wanna see this too? It’s incredible!”

“That’s okay. What would change if I looked? I will just focus on providing proper support.”

As Leeha excitedly offered Black Bass, Blaugrunn shook his head. In reality, now was not the time to be amazed by the scope when so many were struggling to protect this city.

“But I do want to brag a bit.”

Leeha put his eye to the scope and surveyed the frontlines. It was a battle that dyed the land black, but even amidst this, some areas stood out.

The first was a combat zone where white light flashed incessantly. Leeha could immediately tell who were there.

With a slender long sword, Shin Nara effortlessly moved among giant monsters and coordinated with the Sacred Knights to slaughter these beasts!

“As expected of Shin Nara-ssi. Even after such a long time, her movements are no joke. Huh, has she changed her armor? The engraving on the plate mail looks different?”

Even with his old scope, he could make out such details, but the clarity was on another level now.

The magnification?

For the dispatched Sacred Knights, it was a scope high enough in magnification to detail the design and form of their new armor.

“From a distance of 1.5km, you could even see the hairs in their noses”, Leeha chuckled as he targeted a large monster approaching Shin Nara and fired.

Seeing the ogre’s head explode and die, she turned around.

As if she could see where Leeha was, she smiled back at him.

There was no need for trivial whispers like “I’m here to help.”

Because their trust in each other’s capabilities was unshaken.

Suddenly, Leeha’s eyes caught a shimmer of lavender.

Quickly adjusting the scope’s magnification towards it, a familiar face appeared in Leeha’s view.

“Oh, Hyein! What’s that beside you? It doesn’t seem like a monster. New friends?”

“Huh? Leeha? Where—where are you watching from?”

In the moment Hyein appeared confused, “new friends” he was asked about unleashed various kinds of fire magic.

Thirteen ogres and trolls were incinerated in an instant, and Hyein, not one to wait around, used Mass Teleport to vanish from the battlefield.

Those accompanying Hyein were, of course, the mages dispatched from the Mage Squad of Fibiel.

“Leeha! Where are you speaking from!”

“Well, if I tell you where I am, it seems like those friends of yours might come here, so I’d rather not say. Just, don’t die! If it’s dangerous, shoot a flare into the sky, I’ll come to support immediately.”

No need to say “I’m watching from somewhere, let me know if it’s dangerous.”

Hyein was smart enough not to misinterpret Leeha’s clear intention.

“Haha, really, got it!”

Hyein’s cheerful laughter confirmed over the scope made Leeha smile too. Alexander’s exploits, the support from Lee Jiwon, and Ram Hwajung’s actions—their efforts were well enough without Leeha’s direct involvement.

Still, maintaining the frontline with such vast numbers of players proved challenging for them.

Leeha, observing from the walls of Juma City, could clearly see where the frontlines were breaking. Of course, he couldn’t just stand by and watch.
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“Looking from behind like this, one feels like they’ve become some kind of commander. Certainly, it seems this battleground belongs to that warrior.”

“Aren’t we going any further?”

“There’s no need. I’ll take care of the hole on the right side, and the ones on the left, and over there-”

“…Again?”

“-Wow, quick on the uptake now? Just leave it to Koma with the ‘Soul Link’.”

His trust wasn’t placed in just one aspect. Immediately, he had Koma undergo physical transformation and instructed Blaugrunn as well.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, please coordinate with Koma and support that side. Only use lightning magic that induce status ailments. Avoid using magic that deals direct damage as much as possible. Be inconspicuous but effective. You know what I mean?”

“Kruruk?”

“What about Leeha-nim?”

Almost in unison, Koma and Blaugrunn asked. His answer was, of course, singular.

“How long does ‘Levitation’ last?”

“The farther away I am, the weaker it becomes, but it should last for an hour without an issue.”

“Okay. Perfect, just Koma’s duration. We’ll reconvene here then.”

His command was simple.

Spread his left hand’s index and middle fingers, and pointed forward.

“GO!”

To leverage the third wave for a massive level-up, the 『Leeha Squad』 was deployed.

Moreover, this time, they had ensured the safety of their main body thoroughly.

* * *


『Foolish humans. Still, a breed that doesn’t know how to control their greed.』

Toon scoffed.

His words were filled with anger.

Yet, a faint smile also lingered on the dinosaur who had come close to achieving its goal.

‘Indeed… The number of souls collected from the first and second waves wasn’t satisfactory at all. So, it’s enough with just the third wave given that humans blinded by greed are gathering.’

Chiyou found the scene astonishing as well.

The amount of souls salvaged during the first wave was less than three thousand. To completely fill the 50,000 vase, they had thought it would take up to the tenth wave. However, understanding human psychology was something the Demon Army excelled at even more.

The event was marketed as a leveling-up event! And the users, disregarding their own lives, swarmed to it like moths to a flame.

For Chiyou, who had observed all three waves from the sidelines, the situation was pitifully straightforward.

‘Compared to the first, almost four times the people have gathered. Adding to the souls collected during the second wave and the expected haul from this third… And-‘

Collecting souls didn’t just occur during the waves.

Periodic soul collections were also part of the contract between Toon and Chiyou.

‘-Ever since Faust took over, the numbers have surged dramatically. Maybe today, all 50,000 will be gathered.’

Although Chiyou had directed agents within Shinobigumi to discreetly collect souls, the efficiency was somewhat lacking compared to the discretion and mobility.

The replacement of the agent with Faust, albeit recent, was already showing its effectiveness.

Dealing with souls and corpses, Faust demonstrated eerily efficient despite his reluctance.

‘Toon personally handed over an item, and it still took a while to detect the presence of souls… No, rather, was it my fault for not arranging the personnel more strategically?’

Chiyou mused, yet smiled despite self-reproach.

A mistake?

Such a thing was impossible for her. Even if ignorant Igor held a different opinion, Faust wouldn’t just sit quietly, right?


For him, without any power base, the only way to revive was to make direct contact with Bluebeard.

She saw this coming and used it to her advantage.

‘Heh, was getting sick of holding onto it anyway…, might as well release it and probe the aftermath. The soul collection has been useful too.’

Chiyou trusted no one among her associates.

Perhaps because they had already somewhat figured her out, those on her side didn’t fully trust Chiyou either.

Even if they were a ragtag group, they weren’t just thrown together without purpose.

As long as they could be of use to each other, their bonds wouldn’t break.

“Woah! Is that it, what you were talking about? The raging fireball over there!”

“Hmm? You can see that?”

“Ah. Can’t you, miss Chiyou? Well, I’m not seeing it 100%, either. It’s more like catching glimpses through the sounds of the battlefield brought by the wind spirits… It’s a bit difficult to explain to someone who’s not a spiritualist.”

“Hmm. Hearing and feeling…”

“But it’s really something, huh? Hmm, it seems definitely related to fire spirits, but it’s a type I’ve never seen before.”

Chiyou glanced at Prea, who was making a fuss beside her. The white snow elemental mage was deemed the least trustworthy of beings. What on earth was this woman thinking?

Even going out on a Wave Inspection with Toon seemed like a picnic to her, a careless lightness in her step.

‘Players under level 100 can’t afford to be this carefree. Especially the Top 10 rankers who are well aware of the weight their positions and activities carry. In that aspect, Prea’s behavioral pattern holds too many perplexing elements even for Chiyou to comprehend.

“Oh! That is quite impressive. It’s not just any spirit but a composite? I see, so such a thing is possible. Could I do it too? To think there’s a spirit mage like this in Middle Earth!”

“Do you have no idea who’s using it now?”

“Eh? Who is it?”

A distant gunfire sound reached even the location where they were conversing. Suddenly, old memories caused Chiyou’s body to twitch momentarily.

“The person who made that gunfire.”


“Whose gunfire is it?”

Prea’s bold reply momentarily stunned Chiyou.

That same, completely unchanged innocent expression! It was clear now, she was far from a simple fool.

“You don’t know Ha Leeha?”

“Ah! Ha Leeha! You know who that is? Is that the sound of Ha Leeha’s gunfire? I’ve never heard it before; it’s really loud!”

Prea clapped her hands in admiration, astounded.

Chiyou scrutinized her with piercing gazes.

‘Meeting Prea was when I was about to annihilate the Byulcho. She wasn’t on the side of Byulcho… Was she just passing by?’

What exactly was the identity of this player? For the first time since Ha Leeha, Chiyou felt a keen interest towards someone. That interest didn’t take long to intensify.

“Indeed, indeed. It’s a composite spirit, right?”

“Eh? What is?”

“I just asked.”

“…To whom? Ha Leeha?”

“No. To Selena.”

As Prea smiled and spread her fingers, a giant fireball materialized above her head.

A high-nosed woman wearing a burning skirt looked down upon Chiyou.

“Right, selena?”

『Yes. It’s a combination of Ignis and a bear-like creature. But such a body wouldn’t last long outdoors. Though there’s a high elemental affinity for fire spirits, this almost breaches the rules.』

“Yeah, yeah. And Ignis? Since Ignis is of a lower tier than you—” 『I could separate them. Is that what you want, Prea?』

How delighted would Ha Leeha have been? Chiyou, who never flustered under any circumstance, had her poker face completely fall apart.

“What did you just say?”

“Oh, it’s simple. This magnificent fireball is a composite of the high-level fire spirit Ignis and a beast. Our Selena here, being of a higher tier than Ignis, means she can separate Ignis and the beast.”

『I can’t remove it forever. Just temporarily send Ignis back to the spirit world. At most, 30 minutes?』

“Oh, was it? Anyway, that’s how it is.”

Prea smiled gleefully.

Effectively stating that she could completely neutralize a Summoned Young through 『Soul Link』 without much fuss.

Was she aware of the value of what she had said?

Chiyou barely suppressed the chills of excitement. If she played her cards right with Prea…!

‘Ha Leeha…’

Gulp. Chiyou swallowed her saliva.

Although it was a quickly finished act, Prea keenly observed her throat quivering.

“Could you show me now?”

“Selena?”

『There’s no problem.』

“That’s the case.”

“Then, right now—”

Just as Chiyou was about to speak in earnest, Prea placed a finger on her lips.

“So, what will you do for me? After all, I’m on ‘this side’, aren’t I?”

The corners of the white snow elemental mage’s eyes lifted.

Still, there was no black in her pupils. However, another unexpected variable that had been silent until now finally showed its teeth in front of Chiyou.

Taken aback by the sudden shift in her demeanor, Chiyou was momentarily speechless. But, she was quick to recover. Hadn’t she always known? There are no true fools in this world.

Carefully, Chiyou removed Prea’s finger pressing down on her lips.

“Whatever you desire.”

“Then, please fetch me an item. It might be a bothersome and complicated task for me, but I suspect it won’t be difficult for you, Chiyou.”

Prea spoke with an air of granting a favor.

Still appearing innocently, but perhaps because she revealed her true intentions, Chiyou found her somewhat presumptuous.

“Accepted.”

Of course, such a change in emotions caused Chiyou no trouble at all.

Moving past unpleasant feelings with a smile was her know-how in playing Middle Earth.

After all, what was it that Prea wanted?

The details could wait to be heard.

‘Something that can’t be done with the power of spirits, or is too hard to even if tried. Then it must be a task requiring secretive information or searching through various parts of the continent.’

Being well-connected and resourceful herself, it was easy, but for a solo player like Prea, impossible, and she quickly realized this.

“Then, will you show it to me?”

“Sure. It seems I might as well, considering you’re likely to ask for a contract anyway.”

Was the innocent naïveté she showed all calculated? With a pounding heart, Chiyou inspected Prea and the highest-grade fire spirit.

“Selena, please.”

『You know, normally, you shouldn’t make such requests lightly. After all, that fellow is out here with the king’s permission. If I forcibly do this, it will be problematic.』

“That’s why I’m asking.”

『Ahem, alright. The job is simple, so I’ll help.』

While they were atop Toon’s instep, conversing and planning their next steps, Toon, unaware of what was going on above him, remained silent.

It was natural to think that reducing the enemy’s power even slightly would make collecting souls easier.

The highest-grade fire spirit’s body blazed fiercely.

—

“Kyaaaooow, huh?”

Boom!

Suddenly, the figure sweeping through a group of ogres and trolls changed.

No longer giant or beastly, Koma now appeared as nothing more than a slightly large bear.

Blaugrunn, who had followed Koma, continuously buffing him, was taken aback.

“Huh? What’s happening, Koma?”

“Gr, groow? Gwa?”

“Stop growling and speak- ah, right, you initially couldn’t speak. Why’d you undo your transformation? Now’s not the time for jokes.”

“Groow! Gwa, gwoooer, gwong!”

Though Koma seemed to be babbling in panic, Blaugrunn couldn’t understand clearly.

He immediately recognized, however, that this was no ordinary situation.

“Ignis has vanished. And you, Koma-”

“Kraaaahhh!”

“Kwoooo!”

As Koma’s aura weakened, the monsters’ ferocity revived.

They were much further ahead than nearby players, so those players couldn’t have seen them.

Blaugrunn: Leeha-nim, I’m coming back.

Leeha: Huh? Why?

Blaugrunn: I’ll explain when I get there.

“Ah… so this is it. Electromagnetic Induction.”

Blaugrunn swiftly cast, rising into the air.

He scattered some magic towards the approaching large monsters.

Starting from the near surroundings, then in the direction where no players were, one, two, three.

“What?!”

“Crack!”

A tingling sensation followed, but the monsters hesitated only briefly as no immediate effect occurred. The large monster inspected its body briefly before charging at them, but by then, Blaugrunn’s casting of the Bronze Dragon was complete.

“Chain Lightning.”

—Crackling—

“Zap zap zap!”

“Kyoo kyoo kyoo!”

The massive electrical chains, starting from a monster attached to a conductor, leapt towards other conductors, dealing massive damage.

By manipulating the direction of the conductors so as not to veer towards Juma City, no harm came to the players.

(To be continued…)
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“Wow! Really?! There was another human who could use such electric skills-”

Despite Lee Jiwon rushing over after witnessing a high-level chain lightning spell, a blinding flash of light suddenly made Blaugrunn and Koma disappear.

“Where did…?”

Like a dog that lost track of the chicken it was chasing, Lee Jiwon unleashed his frustration on the monsters around him. That these monsters were mercilessly scorched was only to be expected.

“Kuwoo… Kuwoo-”

“Huh? That’s possible?”

“It’s my first time seeing something like this too, so I’m not sure. But seeing Ignis actually fall from the bear…”

“Crazy!”

Even as they discussed the report (?) from Koma and Blaugrunn, Leeha’s Black Beast didn’t stop its onslaught.

A thrilling gunshot completely obliterated a troll’s neck.

It wasn’t just out of pain or embarrassment that the shot targeted there.

If you could deliver a strong impact to the connecting point between the upper and lower body, the target would inevitably lose its center of gravity! Leaving the troll swaying and falling, its disposal was something the other users could handle.

Leeha shifted his gaze from the scope to look at Koma and Blaugrunn.

The child seemed sullen, as if feeling personally responsible for the mishap.

“Sigh, who could have done such a thing?”

“No mana flow was felt.”

“Damn! Does this mean the enemies have been upgraded from the second wave? Did you see any unusual monsters nearby?”

“Not at all. If there were giant beasts, the bear and I would have taken care of them without any problem. The rest were just small fries.”

Blaugrunn’s explanation was calm.


Indeed, if Blaugrunn, a dragon, said as much, it was clear there were no abnormalities in the vicinity.

“Wait! Then that means…”

“Do you suspect something?”

“I did, or rather, I do. Not sure if it’s still relevant, though.”

“What is it?”

Leeha did not answer Blaugrunn’s question.

Slowly, he began to adjust the aim of Black Beast’s barrel with precision.

“There was something on Toon’s foot.”

—

『The Heroic Dwarf’s Ultra-High-Magnification Scope』

Description: A miniature telescope crafted by the master craftsman Dwarf Bottleneck. Made using the ice walrus tribe’s glass forging technology and the eyeball of a Frost Ostrich for materials, it boasts exceptional performance even in its compact size.

“Of course it’s amazing because it was made by someone amazing!” the creator boasted, albeit admitting that without the same caliber of materials, remanufacturing would be impossible.

The increase in the lens diameter was inevitable.

“How could an ostrich’s eye be this big?!”

Bottleneck almost fainted at the size of it.

“However, if considering magnification relative to size— where the traditional scope used a 35mm main tube for up to 30x magnification, this scope only increased to 45mm in diameter yet substantially outperformed its predecessor in terms of effectiveness. Not just size, but the power inherent within the lens, its ability to focus and gather light to form images, differed across lenses in the world of Middle Earth.

‘A technology still impossible in reality.’

Naturally, it allowed for both vertical and horizontal level adjustments.

And click adjustments. If the traditional scope adjusted at 1/10mm, this one could fine-tune to 1/20mm.

‘A marvel of precision engineering’, but that wasn’t even the main dish.


『The Heroic Dwarf’s Ultra-High-Magnification Scope』

Effect: Minimum 2x magnification / Maximum 80x magnification viewable

‘The main deal is this! A whopping… a whopping 80x magnification!’

At 80x magnification, in reality, this would start to be classified under astronomical telescopes!

‘Imagine making this compact thing fit on a rifle – if this were real, just selling this would make a fortune! Oh, but as it’d be categorized as a defense item, export would be tricky, right? Hmm, considering domestic demand alone might not be too lucrative – no, now’s not the time for such thoughts.’

Leeha adjusted the scope’s magnification.

From the walls of Juma City where Leeha was positioned to where Toon was, it was merely 1.5km.

“Even with 『Eagle’s Eye』, it’d be awesome to see Toon’s figure clearly at this distance.”

‘But to see the dirt under Toon’s toenails would be a challenge. However, with this scope-‘

Zoom in, zoom in, zoom in.

Leeha kept increasing the magnification. With an existing 30x magnification scope at a 1.5km distance, it’s like observing from 50m away.

It could distinguish small creatures’ forms and colors. Even if it’s a life form with no distinguishing features, it means it can be clearly identified for what it is.

But what about at an 80x magnification?

From a distance of 5km, maximum magnification view allows observation as if the target object is merely 18.7m away.

At such a distance, it’s not just about recognizing faces; even protruding nose hairs would become visible.

Thus, Leeha was astoundingly surprised.

“What! Chiyou? … Chiyou is…

Why? No, how…

Just then, Chiyou and another person walked in.

* * *


Why was Chiyou there?

How could she be sitting so docilely on the edge of Toon’s foot?

Leeha felt a dizzying sensation for a moment. It was because an unbelievable hypothesis had flashed through his mind.

‘The extermination order on the unique creatures… Yes, she hasn’t been seen since then.’

Who was she with at that time?

According to Tale’s words, it was clearly Igor and Faust who had come.

‘Why didn’t I think of that possibility?’

If it were Igor and Faust, they were the ones who played the role of the vanguard for the Demon King’s Army.

Could it be that those connections still remained?

That through those connections, they crossed over to the New Continent and joined the Demon King’s Army?

Wasn’t the Demon King’s Army’s position just a one-time event-like affair? Above all…

‘Faust must have lost his position as the chief of the Demon King’s Army in the Lope Continent. Or is there another line of connection?’

Though it was an incomprehensible progression, who was the opponent?

In the case of Chiyou, it was a convincing enough situation.

If it was her… it was believed she could stand by Le’s side. She was, after all, the most unpredictable opponent among all Middle Earth players.

But why had they forgotten about her until now?

“Blaugrunn-ssi! Can you see Toon?”

“Of course.”

“When we were hunting ice ostrich, didn’t we detect mana from more than 1km away?”

“Yes, why?”

“Can you detect any mana near Toon right now?”

“Hmm, well, I’m not sure until I try… one moment, please.”

Blaugrunn quickly cast a detection spell. However, all he did was shake his head after a while.

“No, there’s nobody there.”

“Are you sure there’s nobody?”

“Yes, at least nothing is detected by my mana detection. Why?”

Leeha did not answer Blaugrunn’s question. At the same time, it seemed as if the secret of the ranking was being unraveled.

‘Right, now I understand. Bailephus would undoubtedly have superior mana manipulation than Blaugrunn but…

He probably wouldn’t find it either.

The current situation likely involves ‘something’ undetectable in the scope of mana detection spells. Whether it’s an influence created by Toon or a measure directly taken by Bluebeard.

Then, what could be the reason for this?

Leeha finally realized why.

‘While we were blocking the wave and leveling up, they were running the wave and gaining experience.’

It wasn’t out of the realm of possibility.

After all, there was the case of Faust, who was a former vanguard of the Demon King’s Army.

He gained immense strength from Bluebeard and used it as a pretext to gain a significant increase in threat level, successfully accruing numerous evil feats, including leveling up.

‘And the person next to him…

Was a user he had never seen before.

Pointy ears indicated that he was of the Wood Elf race, but Leeha barely knew any Wood Elf users.

The peculiarities were perhaps being barefoot and quite tall?

‘No, it’s the first time seeing her but…

At this point, Leeha was fully experiencing the benefits of the scope upgrade. With a clarity of vision boasting a 100% conversion rate, endowed with the skill “Eyes of the Hawk”, Leeha could even discern the color of a wood elf’s iris from a distance of about 18 meters.

‘I know who it is.’

She had white eyes.

A wood elf with white eyes, and… on Chiyou’s side.

Though Tale’s testimony hadn’t confirmed it, Leeha could roughly guess what kind of conversation Chiyou and Prea had when they exterminated the Starweed. There had been some sort of deal, and Prea was tempted by it.

“Prea, the spirit mage with white eyes, huh? There were so many things I wanted to ask.”

Leeha, whose affinity with spirits had increased, had always wanted to meet this user.

But to think that their meeting would be at gunpoint.

After watching her for a moment and then once more directing his scope towards Chiyou, a word flashed through Leeha’s mind.

“A spirit mage with white eyes? Spirits?”

Spirits.

Instantly, Leeha turned to Koma.

The kid, whose duration of soul link had yet to expire and was still present in the physical realm, looked at Leeha with a puzzled expression.

“Blaugrunn-ssi! Didn’t you say that Ignis has disappeared?”

“Eh? It’s just speculation, but that’s what I think, yes.”

“No, I’m certain. Let’s just assume I’m right! So, hypothetically, could an excellent spirit mage separate something when it has merged with a spirit?”

What did this sudden anomaly signify?

No harm had come to Blaugrunn, but Koma had taken a critical hit. And that critical hit was related to ‘spirits’, and the person in front of him was the most outstanding spirit mage user in the lore of Midlearth.

Could the possibility not be substantial?

Leeha’s speculation was on point.

“… I can’t be certain about the system of spirits. But considering the cases of the highest-grade earth spirit Noeanean and the highest-grade wind spirit Celestine, it doesn’t seem entirely impossible.”

“Right?”

“Yes. They were definitely in control of spirits of a lesser grade than themselves. Hmm, but to manipulate Ignis to such an extent, the adversary must be handling a highest-grade fire spirit or beyond. Is there a human capable of that?”

“It’s not a human.”

“What?”

“It’s a wood elf.”

“Alen Sruna?!”

Blaugrunn exclaimed in surprise, mentioning a name. However, Leeha could not recall who that was.

“Huh? Suddenly, who’s that? Prea – no, I mean, a wood elf.”

“If it’s a wood elf who can freely handle spirits of the highest grade or more! Leeha-nim has the ‘key’! The only being who made contracts with all the spirit kings! A wood elf, alen Sruna!”

“Ah? Ahhh! That ‘Key of the Spirit Realm’!?”

“Sigh, how do you not know what you possess!”

“That, well – I just forgot for a moment! How could I not know something so important.”

Recalling effects and names was one thing, but remembering detailed explanations was another matter.

‘Alen Sruna, a wood elf, Prea… and spirits.’

How are they connected?

Was Prea aware of the “Key of the Spirit Realm”?

Various thoughts swirled through Leeha’s mind.

Regardless, that was not immediately important.

What mattered was that on Toon’s instep, Chiyou and Prea were sitting side by side.

And there was a high probability that Prea had done something to his ‘little one.’

There was no proof, but that was enough.

Merely the fact of being with Chiyou was proof enough, wasn’t it?

“Alright, then I should extend my greetings from here.”

Chiyou and Prea.

Leeha alternated his gaze between the two.

He would have loved nothing more than to blow Chiyou’s head off, but he knew taking a shot at Chiyou was always something that had to be approached with caution.

‘Besides, they must know I’m on this battlefield now.’

Then? Chiyou’s specialty in predicting the future might have already been in motion. Definitely, they would be prepared for a snipe, and a failed attempt grants no second chance.

‘Rather…

If I’m to take aim, it should be at this.

Leeha then shifted his rifle barrel away from Chiyou.

Still under the effect of levitation magic, there was nothing in his view that could obstruct the shot.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 601

				
Arcane Sniper 600

“What are you trying to do?”

Blaugrunn asked, noticing Leeha’s sudden seriousness.

“A greeting.”

“A greeting?”

“If we’ve received one, we should return the favor. That’s how human society works.”

With calm yet quick motions, Leeha adjusted the settings.

The 1/20 mm adjustments made rapid focusing nearly impossible compared to the past, but Leeha wasn’t bothered.

“I don’t need an 80x magnification for a 1.5km shot. I don’t need skills either.”

He readjusted the magnification so that Prea’s body filled the scope. Of course, his aim was always the head. This was not mere reconnaissance; it was a snipe.

Leeha opened both eyes. It had been a while since he last used binocular aiming, but it felt comfortable.

“Ignore wind direction and speed. Measuring distance…about 1,620m. No, 1,625m, wait, wood elves are taller than humans. Taking that into account, it should be 1,628m.”

With a deep breath…

“We’ve seen what you can do.”

And another sigh…

“Now it’s time to show you what I can do.”

With the measurements down to the lm and the adjustments made for aiming completed, Leeha no longer needed to wait.

The only thing that moved was his index finger.

When Leeha’s finger pulled the trigger, a thunderous gunshot rang out from the walls of Juma City.

The time it took for the bullet to cross 1.5km was about 1.8 seconds, the massive amount of kinetic energy being felt before the sound.


Leeha watched the entire situation through his scope.

Prea’s body was sent flying backward by the shockwave, hitting Toon’s ankle and rolling on the ground.

Chiyou, startled, quickly hid her figure – a detail also caught in the scope.

The scene was immensely satisfying, yet Leeha felt a slight regret.

The bullet, aimed precisely at the forehead, unfortunately, did not exit through the back of her head.

“Indeed, a top ten tanker is different.”

Through the scope, a woman in a flaming skirt stood before Prea, glaring at Leeha amidst flames.

However, despite the fierce flames, the woman’s figure flickered.

Yet, her eyes remained fixed on Leeha.

“Is that Selena, as expected?”

Even while observing the subtle expressions of the top-grade fire spirit Selena, Leeha did not lose his smile.

“It’s a real shame.”

“Huh? What is?”

“If Black Bass’s ‘Enhancement’ had ended, I would have blown her away with one shot, top-grade or not.”

The flickering and pained expression meant what? The fact that she had sustained lethal damage was clear enough, so Leeha didn’t ponder long.

“Let’s see how the second shot does.”

Having reloaded with a click, he fired immediately.

『Kahak-』

“Se-Selena!?”

The sudden impact followed by the high-tier spirit’s scream!


No sooner had Prea managed to get up than she hurried over in alarm.

“Hide! Leeha!”

Chiyou immediately hid behind Toon’s feet.

Anyone who had experienced one of Leeha’s attacks would instinctively react this way.

But Prea?

This was her first time witnessing Leeha’s attack firsthand. She could immediately tell the state Selena was in from the sparks before her eyes, but she couldn’t fully grasp what was happening.

『Prea, the barrier, quickly, a barrier-』

Hearing Selena’s fragmented words, Prea hastily concentrated her magic.

“No, noes! Noes!”

Upon Prea urgently calling out the name, a giant rock formation appeared in front of Toon’s feet.

“Uwooooh-“It was a rock big and round enough to cover both Prea and Selena.

Thump! Crack^——-!

“-Hooo…..

And then, the rock shattered into dust, scattering in the wind with the appearance of Noes, the high-ranking earth spirit. It all happened in less than a second.

Confused by the situation she couldn’t understand, Prea shouted,

“Noes!”

If Noes had been even slightly delayed, the second bullet would have passed through Selena and shattered Prea’s skull.

“What!? What happened?” 『Hide, Prea. To think, such humans still exist-』

“Move back now! I told you to hurry! Move!”

Amid Selena and Chiyou’s urgent voices, Prea quickly regained her senses and leaped off Toon’s dorsum to hide beside Chiyou.


“Is this an attack? You mean Leeha attacked us?”

“That’s right!”

Even amidst the unprecedented attack by Leeha, Prea observed Chiyou’s grimace as she shouted.

So even she, who always maintained a poker face, would show such an expression in the face of an attack by Leeha?

『I’m sorry, Prea, I need to rest-』

With a hiss…

Only after burning the final flame, selena returned to the realm of spirits.

“Selena!”

“What? Is she dead? A top-grade spirit?”

“She’s not dead. But…

Since they reveal their presence in this world through the mana of spirit summoners, they don’t completely perish. However, given the circumstances, summoning them to this world again will be impossible for a while.

In her confusion, Prea didn’t share such details.

There was no reason to expose her weaknesses to Chiyou.

Even in the midst of chaos, they wouldn’t share all their information with each other—a method of conversation they had.

But normally, Prea wouldn’t have done so.

Her flustered demeanor now was evidently in contrast to the composure she usually maintained.

‘Was the clumsiness always an act? After all, a fool wouldn’t rise to a ranker’s position… Looks like she’s quite shaken this time?’

The attack by Leeha was that shocking.

Prea felt her mind become cluttered as she suddenly lost a high-ranking earth spirit and a supreme fire spirit.

‘What incredible attack power. If only I knew such an attack existed, selena could have been prepared.’

She could have created an impenetrable barrier of fire, had there been time to prepare.

Had there been any leeway to prepare for the attack, she definitely wouldn’t have been caught off guard like this, Prea felt both surprise and regret at the same time.

‘Hmm, so that means that woman…

Prea glanced briefly at Chiyou.

‘She wasn’t interested in the Byulcho.’

Until now, it was hard to understand why she was so concerned about Byulcho. After all, Byulcho was the guild of a powerful elite minority.

‘Not just Byulcho but… was she observing Leeha to keep an eye out for them?’

While Prea pondered this, she was also wary of Chiyou’s reactions and concerned if Leeha’s attack might come from the side or if there was a way to attack them from behind.

As Prea was cautiously observing Chiyou, Chiyou wasn’t just standing still either.

Observing how the white-eyed spirit summoner would react and what she would do next was natural for Chiyou.

‘Even a swan casts a black shadow.’

It meant Chiyou also took an interest in Prea’s every move.

‘The more I see, the more interesting she gets. I should ask Sasuke to dig into Prea’s past. I’m curious about what she really wants.’

Different dreams in the same bed.

But in this case, at least Chiyou felt she gained more.

She recognized Prea’s capabilities, roughly understood her weaknesses, and found a way to weaken Leeha’s summons.

That was satisfaction enough. In the moment when she was still pondering the true nature of Prea’s identity, Prea herself inadvertently revealed a hint of her foolishness to Chiyou.

What more could she possibly want from this situation?

With that, Chiyou prepared for the third wave. Just when he thought he had secured the victory he sought, the very person who had thoroughly shaken Chiyou’s side was also releasing a chortling laugh.

“Haha, it’s like dealing with a ghost, I tell you. What popped out at the end, was it an earth spirit?”

“Noeanen?”

“Hmm, no. I’ve encountered the highest grade before; it wasn’t as splendid. Just a huge boulder, perhaps? Maybe mid or high grade? Anyway, it couldn’t kill Prea or Chiyou, and didn’t even touch Toon.”

Leeha focused his scope on Toon.

Toon appeared utterly unfazed.

Despite being an immense monster, it was impossible that Toon hadn’t felt the battle raging on right above its feet.

And yet, it looked like this!

‘Does it mean it can withstand any attack of mine? No matter how colossal the monster, is that even possible?’

In reality, Toon had withstood an attack. A dinosaur that lived even after a shot pierced through its eye socket. Were subsequent attacks within its tolerance?

Leeha, who had aimed at Toon’s forehead through his scope, could only sigh.

‘Elizabeth said before, if I fire a multi-warhead shot now…’

Leeha pondered deeply.

The fear of failing against a target already once failed resurfaced. Back then, he had not even reached half of his awakening.

And now, he was in his complete form.

This was causing him distress.

‘What if it dodges? That damned Toon, pretending to be doing something else but surely it’s watching us. It takes 1.8 seconds for the bullet to travel. Enough time for it to react.’

A closer sniping position was needed for the shot.

‘If I’m to do it… It has to be from a distance where the bullet can hit within less than a second, assuredly and perfectly.

If the sniping fails after firing the multi-warhead missile, Toon might immediately start advancing towards Juma City. Then, the situation might not just be ‘The Third Monster Wave’ but could become ‘The Day Juma City Fell.’

The muzzle was precisely aimed at Toon’s forehead. His index finger perfectly touched the trigger.

A slight movement of his finger, and any kind of reaction could follow.

“Ha Leeha-nim?”

Should he pull the trigger? Could he pull it? Considering variables other than oneself, how much does the possibility increase? What about utilizing Blaugrunn?

After all, there were many rankers here. It is almost safe to say that nearly all of the Top 10 were gathered. Wouldn’t they be able to handle a frontal battle?

“…. Ha Leeha-nim?”

Leeha’s index finger was slightly moving.

‘The Sacred Knights are also here.’

Besides the Sacred Knights, thousands of troops dispatched from Fibiel were not to be underestimated. The guerrilla capabilities of the Magical Battalion combined with Hyein’s space teleportation ability were also of an incredible level.

This was different from the last battle against the source of evil. Moreover, this time we also have the Arcane Sniper, don’t we? Might it not be worth a try?

In Leeha’s head, endless simulations of the battle were running.

The outcome one bullet could bring, he couldn’t easily conclude his deep contemplation.

While Blaugrunn’s anxious voice buzzed beside him, Leeha, completely immersed in the world within his scope, could no longer hear him.

A single drop of sweat ran down Leeha’s sideburn, dropping off his chin.

And in that moment,

“Waaaah! What, what is that!”

Suddenly, a face popped out within the world inside the scope!

No, to be precise, it was the grotesque appearance of bulging foul scales!

To any ordinary person, it would have been shocking enough to involuntarily pull the trigger, but Leeha barely managed to stay his hand.

“Keke, it came and went, unable to hear the gunshot, I wondered what was happening… What are you doing here? I called out, but you didn’t answer, so I peeked into the scope.”

“…Biyemi-nim? And you are-”

At last, Leeha’s dilemma about Toon concluded. Or rather, he was forced to end it.

“Jijijan! Surprise—–!?”

“Petyr? Why are you…?”

Attempting to drape an arm around Biyemi-nim’s shoulder, Petyr, was met with Biyemi-nim’s temper flaring as she brushed the arm away.

“Shall we have a chat?”

Biyemi-nim said with a beaming smile.

“It seems like it would be a rather interesting story for Ha Leeha-ssi, don’t you think? Keke.”

“Buhuhuhuh, a surprise party, you say, a surprise party——!?”
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“Fang Strike!”

Shin Nara’s rapid thrusting did not stop at just once.

Though a large monster, its body structure was essentially humanoid, making targeting its weak points no issue. A quick thrust pierced through both knees and severed the muscles behind them, rendering the ogre unable to walk any longer.

The Sacred Knights charged in at that moment.

They started their attack steadily and heavily, effectively disabling the ogre’s shoulders in the process.

The time it took to incapacitate it was merely around 3 seconds.

Compared to other players, the battle waged by the Sacred Knights and their leader, Shin Nara, was evidently of a different speed and dimension.

“It seems like we’re getting close to the end, doesn’t it?”

“Yes, dame.”

Standing beside Nara was Cyndergaard.

He, too, had shown remarkable feats, having volunteered as a dispatch knight. This was evident as the Sacred Knights’ symbol, a white cloak, was now soaked red.

“Nara! Are we all set?”

“Yes, Bobae.”

Members from Byulcho approached them.

As always, the wave began at dawn and started to calm down by dusk.

“Phew! It was intense even with the Sacred Knights here. It would have been a disaster without their support this time.”

Kijung shook his head at the significantly reduced number of players.

With each wave, the difficulty had been increasing dramatically.

Despite the largest participation, the third wave had the smallest number of survivors compared to the second wave, proving just how crucial the role of the Sacred Knights and other knight orders’ fire support had been.


“Still, it’s a relief that we’re safe.”

“Right. The interval before the fourth wave should be longer. The way it’s going, the dead players won’t have time to respawn before it begins.”

“Well, we’ll find a way when the time comes”,

Nara said with a smile, wiping the blood off her sword.

“What way?”

Kijung tilted his head, and Hyein showed a tired smile.

“Exacty. Once word of Fibiel’s dispatch knights’ achievements spreads across the old continent, minist, Kraven, and Shazrashian won’t sit idle. They’ll surely send in troops. If knights and magic squads comparable to the capitals’ defense forces are dispatched, it will definitely be easier than this time. From Fibiel’s perspective, they’ve deployed national troops and suffered some losses in their knight order. They can use that to assert their claim over the new continent’s shares—”

In essence, Fibiel had emerged as the champion of this defense.

It was an undeniable truth, and no other country could object. After all, it was Fibiel’s knights who were on the frontline.

This meant the later participants were naturally drawn into the leading competition. Decisions wouldn’t take long to be made.

If the fourth wave didn’t happen tomorrow, other countries’ knight orders would arrive before then, according to Hyein’s judgment.

“Ah, I see—”

“Exactly, Hyein hyung!”

“I thought so too, Bobae-ssi!”

“Don’t lie, Kijung. There’s no way you could’ve thought of that.”

“Hey! What do you think of me as?!”

Kijung and Bobae playfully bickered.

Nara watched them with a mild smile before turning her gaze to Hyein.

His prediction was indeed remarkable. Neither she nor Rotzak had expected precisely that, had they?

But unlike Nara and Rotzak, who almost entirely lived within the palace walls, Hyein was virtually an outsider. Yet, he could make such accurate assessments of the situation.


“Hyein, that’s impressive.”

It was only natural for Shin Nara to express admiration.

“You flatter me too much.”

Hyein shook his head modestly, but Nara’s eyes sparkled as they stayed on him.

Tale surveyed the surroundings, becoming orderly, with a content smile and then remarked,

“By the way, I haven’t seen Leeha around this time.”

“Ah! Bobae, wait a moment!”

As Kijung stepped back, Bobae finally stopped his teasing.

“I think Leeha will be here soon? It sounded like the battle was wrapping up.”

“Right, I suppose the nation might be too eager to see it, but unsurprisingly, because he’s a responsible person. I thought he might appear once the Wave was over.”

“Even Biyemi-ssi disappeared at some point, huh? Hmm, I wonder what he’s been up to these days.”

“How can you, as the Guild Master, not know the whereabouts of your guild members?”

“Well, asking Biyemi-ssi about anything is a bit awkward, you know. His location does show up, but I need to check first—”

Suddenly, Toon’s roaring interrupted Kijung’s words.

As usual, the corpses of the players vanished into thin air, a phenomenon that no longer surprised anyone.

“My goodness, how fascinating.”

“You’ll get used to it after experiencing a few Waves. Oh, and usually, it’s better not to touch the dropped items. It causes nothing but fights and chaos among the players over them.”

“Do you think I’m the sort to be greedy over such things?”

“Exactly. There wouldn’t be any item that catches your eye.”

It might have been different during the first Wave, but now, all that remained were ‘junk items’.


Knowing the high risk of death, players began carrying all sorts of junk items in their bags.

It was a trick in hopes of dropping non-equipment items upon death, which, surprisingly, was quite effective.

Toon’s roar signified the end of the Wave, and around this time, there was always a large gain in experience.

While others were either shocked at the experience gain or were discussing the level-up effects, only Kijung felt dejected.

‘As soon as Bobae and Nara meet, the topic of the conversation always changes drastically. But really, what could Biyemi be up to? And why hasn’t Leeha come to see Nara?’

Although Kijung could not be certain of Biyemi’s activities, as a Guild Master, finding out the location of a guild member was not a big deal.

“Hmm… Huh?”

Kijung’s eyes widened as he scanned through the guild and friend lists.

“Great job everyone〜”

“I almost died just following along with a light heart.”

“Haha, but it was fun, right?”

“Ugh… I’d absolutely refuse that kind of ‘fun.’ Do you know how much effort it takes to summon Selena again?”

Chiyou and Prea returned to the fortress, their light-hearted voices filling the air.

Although Prea had returned to her former self, Chiyou showed no particular reaction.

After all, she had already figured out Prea’s true nature.

‘Pretending to be scared, huh.’

While Chiyou indulged Prea’s fussing, she inwardly scoffed. Her white eyes were utterly unmoving.

As Chiyou and Prea entered the fortress, and Toon followed, a barrier was erected again.

The first to welcome their return was, of course, Sasuke.

“Welcome back.”

Behind him stood Igor, with a saw-toothed sword on his shoulder, and the radiant lizardia and Faust, their eyes gleaming.

“Ha, you’re later than us. We finished way before you.”

“Way before? It was only a five-minute difference. Can you really say that?”

“Blame your slowpokes for not being able to work faster. It was unavoidable.”

“Shut it, Igor. If you had been a bit more cooperative, gathering souls would have been much easier.”

“Quiet, worms. How many did you collect, necromancer?”

“I have absorbed the souls of one thousand seven hundred and thirty-five people.”

“Hmm.”

Toon nodded in satisfaction.

Was it necessary to absorb the souls hovering around the corpses of players alone?

Accelerating the process naturally led to the PK-ing of players.

After being assigned the task of soul absorption, Faust reported to Chiyou and worked with Igor to accelerate the process.

‘Considering those two failed to cooperate once, it’s unlikely they’d easily work together again.’

As Chiyou predicted, the two were still at odds with each other.

However, despite their disagreements, they were excellent pieces who brought significant results to their assigned tasks.”If we add what we gained from the Wave today-”

『Bring me the jar.』

Though Toon did not expressly say so, the harvest was by no means insignificant.

The amount far exceeded 50,000, nearly reaching 80,000, indicating that the souls of many users had been gathered.

“What will happen to the souls over the limit? Maybe there’s something else you can do with them?”

『The souls can’t be preserved for more than 3 hours anyway. You know that.』

It had been one of the first things Chiyou had heard from Toon – that the souls had to be placed in the jars within three hours.

Of course, Chiyou remembered it.

But she had ventured the guess that Toon might know a way to utilize the extra souls, perhaps by converting them into stats.

‘In the end, even Faust couldn’t find Bluebeard. But if we fill up five jars, he will surely show himself.’

The moment Toon, holding the jars, moves towards Bluebeard, that’s the moment to track him closely.

This thought wasn’t unique to Chiyou.

Faust, Igor, and Czar had a similar plan, having experienced a significant increase in stats through Bluebeard.

“Hehe, understood. Sasuke? Bring out the jar.”

“Hah. 『Disenchantment: Unseal』!”

Sasuke’s hands moved swiftly.

One of his sorceries involved handling items like the jars, which couldn’t fit into a bag, so Chiyou trusted Sasuke with their storage.

Moments later, with a boom, five jars appeared.

『Everyone, step back.』

Toon’s massive foot landed in the center of the fortress.

Some users frowned at the sight of him opening his mouth wide and starting to extract souls above the jars.

‘Even if it’s just graphics, must they depict the vomiting of human souls like that? Really… can’t get used to it.’

Chiyou, too, covered her nose and mouth with her sleeve and stepped back a few paces.

The souls, pouring out like black smoke, naturally started being sucked into the jars.

The fourth jar quickly filled up.

And then the fifth jar was immediately overflowing! Tension subtly began to flow through the watchers.

What would happen when the jars were full?

Toon moved swiftly, as large as he was.

The concept of his stride was beyond imagination, and he could even conceal himself using a skill similar to invisibility.

What if he only used them to collect souls and then just disappeared? They would end up like a dog chasing chickens, only to stare at the roof.

-Everyone, be on your guard.

Upon Chiyou’s command, the users on Chiyou’s side nodded, steadying their hearts, determined not to miss the moment Toon started to move.

‘More, more, more—’

The souls gurgled as they were sucked into the jar.

It was clear to the surrounding people that the souls were almost full, naturally escalating the tension.

Chiyou, Igor, Faust, Prea, Yongyong, Sasuke!

And not just them – the agents of Shinobigumi, the outsiders of 『Yamato』, and even the normal NPCs trembling in fear, all focused on the scene!

Yet another group of people was watching the same object.

Of course, their intentions were entirely different.

“Collecting souls, you say? This Wave… The purpose of this event, so—”

“Heheh, Ha Leeha surely is quick-witted. I suppose this much is enough for you to understand, right?”

“Buhuhuhut! We’ve infiltrated their fort a total of 14 times so far. Judging by the number of jars filled, this time it’s certain.”

Biyemi and Petyr relayed everything related to the Wave, as well as Toon and Chiyou’s relationship and the conspiracies beyond that, to Leeha.

Leeha had doubts about the unusually reciprocal Wave events, considering they were not typical of Middle Earth, so their story seemed quite plausible.

Of course, the final decision had to be seen with one’s own eyes.

Meanwhile, Leeha imposed one condition.

(To be continued…)
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“Then, please stop trying to kill me through the 『Midnight Circus』.”

“Buhit?!”

If Leeha were to be killed by a member of the 『Midnight Circus』, he would lose a significant number of stats.

Leeha did not forget this conditional achievement that he had accomplished.

“K-Kiki… Anyway, Ha Leeha-ssi, you really don’t miss anything.”

Biyemi spoke in a tone that implied defeat, but Petyr didn’t accept it so easily. Nevertheless, after a long push and pull, Petyr had no choice but to give up.

What Leeha obtained was a conditional negotiation.

― They wouldn’t attack on the New Continent.

‘Even just this much is enough.’

Just lifting the burden of having to worry about assassins from the 『Midnight Circus』 in outrageous places was a significant gain.

As soon as they settled all discussions, the three teleported immediately and infiltrated Chiyou’s fortress in advance.

About twenty minutes after they positioned themselves in a spot overlooking the fortress plaza, Igor’s and Faust’s group arrived. Ten minutes later, Chiyou and Toon returned to the fortress.

― See? I was right, kit-Kit.

― …… That time when you mentioned paleo and the snake… you had already found this place?

― Well, I’m Rejardia, and I stick to my promises like a knife. Vietnamese people’s grudges are usually strong, you see.

― Unbelievable. Well, it would’ve been better than showing my dealings with Petyr.

― Actually, I hid it because Petyr was trying to kill Ha Leeha-ssi. Kit-Kit, you should think of me as your lifesaver.

― Whoa… It was a stroke of luck that I negotiated that condition earlier.

Recalling the day he met Biyemi in the jungle, Leeha shook his head. He understood now what was being hidden.

Shaking his head in disbelief, Sasuke finally brought out the jar.


Even without further words from Biyemi or Petyr, Leeha instantly recognized the jar.

‘Five of them. I just need to break those.’

The distance was also close.

At a mere 600 meters, he could snipe without any skill adjustments using the lowest scope magnification.

‘Blaugrunn is also waiting in Juma City.’

He had prepared for the possibility of spatial locking.

Using Blaugrunn’s summoning magic and Leeha’s emergence skill in tandem, they could break through most levels of spatial locks.

‘Because it’s a skill that even has the possibility to break through the spatial lock of red dragon Lavatel. I won’t have to worry about dying. So, all I have to do is shoot, right?’

This might put Biyemi and Petyr at risk, but in the worst-case scenario, every man for himself, right?

Leeha quickly adjusted the clicks and aimed at the jar.

At the lowest magnification, not only the jar but also the users around it and Toon’s large body came into focus.

He had no intention of targeting Igor, Faust, or Prea.

The same went for Chiyou.

Just like Biyemi, Leeha knew that the greatest damage to Chiyou wouldn’t come from killing her at this moment.

‘I’ll make her jump out of her skin. The target is simple. It’s not something moving or alive.’

Huuu…

Haaa…

Leeha’s breathing grew a bit more rapid.

No one noticed his movements.

There was nothing to be anxious about. However, Toon’s figure captured in the scope was weighing on Leeha’s mind.


‘Damn it! Why am I like this?’

Even when every preparation was complete, sniping was scary.

But wasn’t that something he already knew? Not only knew, he had overcome it many times.

‘Hey, why are you like this, fingers… Why now?’

Blaming his hands that wouldn’t move, Leeha focused on the scope.

The tension, excitement, and trembling he felt when looking at Toon through the scope during the third wave were all back.

That was the case, even though he wasn’t looking at Toon’s face right now.

― Ha Leeha-ssi? What are you doing? Hurry!

― Buhihit, is this heartbeat also a surprise?

‘Damn it, I want to shoot too!’

He sniped with serious determination and serious equipment. He even hit his target. However, Toon had once survived Leeha’s sniper shot.

Was it because the memories from that time still lingered and created a sense of fear? However, when he saw the Toons during the second wave, it hadn’t affected him at all.

“Of course, back then I didn’t see them through a scope, just from a distance…”

Was it different when viewing through a scope? Was the shock from that failed day resurfacing because he saw through a scope?

“Damn it, is this some kind of PTSD… No, this isn’t enough to… I can shoot. I can do it. Steady your breath. Stay calm.”

Even though his mind was intact enough to assess his condition coldly, his body wouldn’t obey.

All ‘syndromes’ almost describe the separation of mind and body.

Knowing something didn’t mean he could avoid it.

“―Leeha-ssi, hurry! We are already filling the fifth jar!”

“―Wait… Just wait! Stop rushing me a bit!”


Leeha was equally frustrated.

The target was inanimate. It was a jar. But if he broke the jar? Would he be able to get out alive? What if the Toons charged at him?

Even though he had prepared an emergency escape route with Blaugrunn, he was still terrified!

He absolutely did not want to experience his limbs being ripped apart by Toon in a synchronization rate of 100%.

“Damn it, you, crazy fingers, listen to me, listen!”

His fingers, which always moved in sync with his mind, were now petrified as if under a stone spell.

The dinosaur’s fear paralyzed Leeha.

His breathing, which needed to be regulated, became more rapid and the gun muzzle, which shouldn’t have a single tremor, slightly shook.

This was because Leeha’s body was trembling.

“If I don’t see the Toons… and aim accurately… and shoot with my eyes closed… No! That’s ridiculous. If a sniper shoots with closed eyes, they should strip off their rank and discharge themselves! Stay calm. Stay calm, Leeha.”

But he didn’t calm down.

Instead, Leeha thought of another method. If the cause was the Toons, and if it was difficult to overcome the current situation, then he just needed not to see the Toons.

Usually, he would have to close his eyes to not see, but what about now?

“My target is only the jar.”

Leeha adjusted the magnification of the scope.

To an even higher magnification.

Literally, so that nothing but the jar appeared inside the scope!

“―Leeha-ssi! It’s already full, it’s full! Are you going to take responsibility if they escape?”

“―Buhi, there’s something thrilling about this tension!”

“―Damn it, if you don’t shoot in 3 seconds, I’ll just run out there! 3!”

While two beastmen were jumping around whispering in his ear, Toon finally disappeared completely from Leeha’s sight.

It was a moment both happy and sad.

The shaking stopped as if it were a lie.

He was glad he could now snipe, but it confirmed that the cause of his physical abnormality was indeed the Toons.

“―2, 1…”

“Shooting.”

He started with the first jar on the far left.

Clang────!

A clear sound of destruction was followed by a gunshot that seemed to tear through the air.

Leeha immediately turned the muzzle. Even though the close distance made aiming somewhat challenging due to the vastly increased magnification, he didn’t need to worry about accuracy as long as the Toons weren’t in sight.

Boom─────!

By the time the gunshot echoed through Chiyou’s secret fortress, the second jar had already shattered.

* * *

“Block it! Stop it with your body if you have to!”

Who? Where? How? Why?

He didn’t think about such questions.

This sound, this situation! The only scenario that came to mind required only one thing to do!

Chiyou was the first to yell and charge forward.

Responding was more important than identifying the cause!

Thanks to her sharp shout, other users who were in chaos hurriedly rushed in.

Sasuke and a member of the Shinobigumi threw themselves to guard the third jar with their bodies.

However, with their mortal bodies, they couldn’t block Leeha’s bullets.

Boom!

Two corpses and a shattered jar sprawled across the floor.

『How dare you…….』

“What the!? Which idiot followed us here!?”

“It’s dangerous, Igor!”

“〈Bone Shield〉! All zombies, surround me!”

Faust covered himself using skills and summoned undead creatures.

Igor also raised the broad side of his serrated sword to guard himself. Users from Czar quickly rushed to surround Igor.

The users knew that the one powerful enough to pierce through two bodies and break a jar was Leeha. The only one familiar with the sound of that gun was Ha Leeha.

Users who had faced Leeha before instinctively shielded their bodies first.

Prea’s legs trembled momentarily, but she didn’t summon any spirits.

Unlike Igor and Faust, who were entirely gripped by fear, she still had the presence of mind to think.

‘The person who broke the jar wouldn’t now start sniping people. The objective is clear from the beginning.’

The prediction was obvious: until all the jars were broken, they wouldn’t aim their gun at the users! But Prea wasn’t the only one with this insight.

『Grooooo!』

“Grr, quickly… protect us, Toon! 〈Dance of Communion〉!”

Chiyou, who was guarding the jar, saw the bullet piercing through her stomach.

She leaped sideways, hugging the jar, and rolled on the ground, sending a cloud of dust rising.

Even rolling on the ground offered no respite.

Now, a yellow bullet was aimed at her chest. Chiyou swiftly dodged as soon as she got up.

Even with foresight, evading bullets shot from such a short distance in a moment was an impressive feat.

『Who is it! Brown? Elizabeth? How dare you repay the Count’s grace in this manner!』

Toon firmly planted his foot in front of the jar.

Since the direction of the bullet had been roughly identified, now all that was left was to block it. Toon’s thick ankles were more than enough to cover the entire jar.

“I don’t know who it is, but it’s not them! It’s Ha Leeha! The one who targeted you before, Toon!”

『Indeed, impertinent human! To think you could thwart the Count’s plans with such an attack!』

One jar was shielded by Chiyou, and the other by Toon.

It was no longer easy for Leeha to continue targeting them.

“Toon, up ahead! He’s on the fortress roof!”

Barely escaping Leeha’s attack range, Chiyou quickly pinpointed Leeha’s location using 〈Dance of Vibration〉.

As Toon started moving towards the fortress with a thud, Chiyou sensed another unusual vibration through 〈Dance of Vibration〉.

“N-No way… What is… What is this!”

Splash!

Suddenly, a small quantity of liquid was thrown onto her face from the shadows.

The liquid began corroding her skin on contact. Unable to open her eyes properly and unable to wipe it off, she screamed in agony.

“Ahhh!”

Instinctively, Chiyou reached into her bag, fumbling to pour healing potions onto her wounds and down her throat.

Blindly, she couldn’t see.

A green-scaled lizardman lurking in the alley shadows, watching her struggle, holding a small water balloon-like pouch.

“Kikik, I told you I’d repay you.”

“That voice… Biyemi!?”

“Die, you bitch.”

Thrust!

Biyemi drove his dagger into Chiyou’s stomach, or so he thought.

But at that moment!

“Ugh!”

Biyemi saw a protruding object piercing through his own back and emerging from his chest.

“How on earth…”

It was he who was stabbed.

“Good grief, letting something like soul retrieval make things this messy… Should I first deal with this nuisance?”

Although Chiyou couldn’t see the face, she knew who it was.

Even in the grip of near-death, Biyemi didn’t miss the whispered words.

—Run away… Bluebeard…

Bluebeard had appeared.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 604

				
Arcane Sniper 604

“Ha! Is it that gunslinger again? How persistently annoying- huh?”

Bluebeard, having retrieved his staff, clicked his tongue but was suddenly taken aback.

“Molting?”

He had thought lizardia was dead, only to find that what had fallen to the ground was merely a shell in lizardia’s shape.

“Ha! Did he molt in the meantime?”

What Biyemi had obtained from the Serpentine paleon tribe wasn’t just acidic venom. He had also learned another secret technique that utilized lizardia’s racial traits.

Bluebeard couldn’t help but burst into laughter, kicking at Biyemi’s shed skin on the ground. He knew all too well how futile it was to chase a chameleon in the darkness.

“You said your name was Chiyou.”

“It’s my first time meeting you, Count, despite these circumstances.”

Chiyou maintained her composure despite the extreme pain she was in.

“Ah, it’s hard to say we’re meeting with me looking like this.”

It was her first chance to converse with Bluebeard. She was prepared to face death for this opportunity.

‘Curse that damn chameleon. I can’t see a thing.’

What expression was Bluebeard wearing? How would he view her act of protecting the jar?

She wanted to check, but it was hard to find a way. Despite consuming a huge amount of healing potions, her vision remained dark and didn’t clear up.

Her vision wasn’t just dimming due to fatigue; Biyemi’s acidic venom had completely destroyed her eyes.

“Making such a greeting despite your eyes being ruined? You have more guts than most men.”

“Thank you, I appre- Ah?!”

Whoooosh!


As soon as Bluebeard’s hand touched Chiyou’s face, the corrosion and poisoning effects of the acidic venom stopped.

Her dead eyes did not return to life, but it was still a gesture of goodwill. Chiyou felt unexpectedly good about Bluebeard’s excessive friendliness.

“Thank you, Count.”

“No, I should thank you. Even in this situation, you protected it. Let me check the others first.”

That was all Chiyou heard. With a whoosh, she could no longer sense any presence of Bluebeard.

『Where are you, you bastard―――!』

All that echoed was the roar of the dinosaur that stirred up the entire fortress. The cry, as if to tear down the fortress, vibrated through the air, resonating for a long time.

“So noisy, you pathetic creature.”

『My Lord, Count.』

Though the figure was as small as Toon’s eyeballs, Bluebeard’s words were enough to shut Toon up.

“tsk tsk… to think you couldn’t prepare for even this.”

『I’m sorry.』

Toon bowed deeply, almost touching the ground with his head, in apology. Bluebeard didn’t spare Toon a glance, instead surveying the devastated fortress.

Igor and Faust twitched every time their eyes met with Bluebeard’s, but they were too busy hiding their own forms, indicating they had not fully grasped the situation.

“That woman must have a hard time leading these fools… Are they still on about that? The gunslinger has been gone for a long time.”

“Are you saying… Leeha has left…”

Faust stepped forward, deactivating his shield in front of Bluebeard.

Bluebeard’s eyes suddenly filled with a murderous intent, but he lightly swung his staff, playfully knocking on the white head of lizardia.

However, at that moment, Faust felt the presence of death. Seeing Faust trembling, Igor and Czar adopted a defensive stance, but Bluebeard was not bothered in the least.

“Kukukuku… Looks like you’ve become quite perceptive.”


He stared blankly at the roof of the fortress, the spot where Leeha had just been.

“If it were the old times, you would’ve stayed to kill me. Have you grown smarter… Or is it something else-”

Bluebeard smacked his lips, but the swift disappearance of Leeha and Petyr was not solely due to Biyemi’s whisperings. Leeha had wanted to land a deadly blow, even if a kill was out of the question. Unsatisfied with having destroyed only three pots, he had resolved to take down at least one more pot before leaving, or possibly eliminate more than two key players.

“Is there a problem?”

Like a murmur from Bluebeard, Leeha’s plans dissolved into nothingness in an instant, starting the moment Toon entered his scope.

“Why on earth…”

The place Leeha fled to was not Juma City. Without even saying a proper goodbye to Biyemi and Petyr, he had moved to Blaugrunn’s lair.

“Are you alright, Leeha-nim?”

Blaugrunn asked, looking at Leeha with concern, but Leeha couldn’t find the words to respond.

I’m fine. I wasn’t attacked. I haven’t been affected by any kind of magic, including status ailments. But… can I really say I’m okay?

“Haah… Haah…”

Leeha removed his finger from the trigger of Black Bass. His index finger was trembling.

“Leeha-nim?”

Never before, not before his enlistment, nor after the incident in the military, and not even throughout all his gameplay in Middle Earth, had he been filled with such terror of sniping.

‘Why am I like this!’

Leeha looked down at his still-trembling finger.

‘It’s just a game.’

“Toon! How many souls are left?”

“Well… only about two pots full, roughly 20,000-”

“No, no.”


Bluebeard, who had been looking at the fortress roof, turned around and floated toward Toon, pointing his staff at him.

“Including those inside.”

Toon’s pupils dilated momentarily. The souls transferred into pots amounted to roughly 20,000, but the number Toon absorbed during this third wave far exceeded that.

『There should be at least 15,000 inside me currently.』

“All together that’s 40,000?”

Bluebeard smacked his lips.

“Dammit, it’s not enough, but it can’t be helped. Let’s go.”

『Excuse me?』

“Don’t make me repeat myself, you dense dino-brained bastard. I’m not in the best of moods.”

『I-I’m sorry, Count.』

Toon immediately slammed his head to the ground, causing a shock akin to a minor earthquake to the surrounding players.

Bluebeard climbed onto Toon’s shoulder, and just as Toon was raising his head, Bluebeard, as if he suddenly remembered something, called out toward an alley.

“Ah, and – Chiyou!”

As if she had been waiting for the call, Chiyou walked out from the alley. Although the situation had not worsened, her treatment wasn’t completely finished either. Some players frowned at her gruesomely disfigured face, but Chiyou herself seemed not to care.

“Yes, Count.”

“You’re coming too.”

“It’s an honor.”

Chiyou bowed her head slightly. She had finally seized the opportunity to form a connection with an NPC who was arguably the strongest entity in the Middle Earth saga. For her, the current situation was the best possible outcome she could have orchestrated.

Chiyou discreetly issued commands to Faust, Igor, and the other players. It was a straightforward order: wait and defend the fortress, as this was in everyone’s best interest to survive. And no player dared to disobey.

Perched on Toon’s shoulder beside Bluebeard, Chiyou’s presence was a clear testament to who held the highest power at this location.”

Then, my friends. Until we meet again.”

Bluebeard swung his staff, poking Toon’s shoulder lightly. That simple action, requiring no casting at all, made both the giant Toon and their existence vanish in an instant.

Chiyou, still unable to see, had no idea where she was.

But one thing was certain.

Ba-bam!

『Achievement: Suppressed Vitality for 20 Years (S-)』

You have set foot in the darkest place of the Erika continent for the first time.

This place, known as ‘Demon’s Core’, has never before been entered by someone devoid of demonic energy. All life in Middle Earth awaits your wise choice in coming here.

Reward: Strength +7, agility +7, intelligence +7, holy Resistance +10%

『Suppressed Vitality for 20 Years』 You are the first to register this achievement.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the original effects will be increased by 200%.

Effects: Strength +14, agility +14, intelligence +14, holy Resistance +20%

This space has never been visited by any user.

Even blinded, Chiyou suppressed a laugh as she viewed the system window.

‘Demon’s Core’, indeed… And 20 years at that. This place is certainly-

Ordered by Bluebeard, why did Toon collect souls?

Chiyou had a vague idea of his purpose, and naturally, she had predicted their current location as well.

『This place is…!』

“Ah, yes, Toon. It’s been a while since we’ve seen this guy.”

Toon stared ahead with wide eyes.

Despite clearly being underground, a corner of the spacious area, large enough to accommodate Toon’s massive physique, housed a bright red crystal attracting the gaze like that of a dinosaur.

『Yes.』

Chiyou found the situation unbearable.

Judging by Toon’s low voice, definitely one of ‘those things’ was in front of her!

Damned lizard! Did Bluebeard bring me here just to torment me? Shouldn’t you let me know what’s going on too!”

She felt so frustrated that she wanted to stomp her feet, but Chiyou maintained her composure as much as possible. Right now, the most important thing was to ‘make her presence felt.’

Chiyou did not want to ruin her image by asking frivolous questions during her first meeting with Bluebeard.

“Let’s wake this guy up first.”

『But the number of souls-』

“It’s fine, it’s fine. He was always a glutton, wasn’t he? Having thirty, forty thousand souls should be enough to open his eyes a bit. Though fully regaining consciousness might take a bit longer…

『-Understood. Chiyou, the jar.』 “Yes”,

Chiyou carefully set down the jar she had been clutching. Bluebeard looked at her fondly and nodded.

“Silent, I like that. Not like that idiot Faust.”

“Thank you.”

“But there’s a difference between keeping quiet because you know something and having nothing to say because you’re ignorant. Do you know where you are?”

Suddenly, Bluebeard, who had been conversing with Toon, threw a question at Chiyou.

She knew this must be some kind of test. Why else would she have been so quiet up till now if not to answer this moment?

“Yes.”

“Hah, you know?”

“I can’t see right now, so I’m not exactly sure, but I guess it’s one of ‘two places.'”

“Ha-ha-ha! Good. Wait here. Toon, do your job.”

『Understood, Count.』

Moments later, Chiyou could hear the gurgling effect sound from Toon.

The task must surely be to extract all the souls within.

‘Toon said without the jar, the souls wouldn’t last more than 3 hours.’

The jars for housing souls aren’t something you can just find anywhere in the Old Continent.

Even Chiyou, who had managed to acquire one from the royal palace’s treasury after roasting Minis’s magi squad, knew it was difficult to obtain more.

Neither Toon nor Bluebeard could be unaware of its rarity.

Meaning, even if a wave came, keeping more than 20,000 souls would be difficult.

‘So is that why try now?’

What was that ‘try’?

Chiyou waited quietly. Bluebeard, who had completely vanished, was suddenly in front of her again.

(To be continued…)
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“Let’s see, hmm, if I were to heal a human’s eyes, I would do it like this.”

“Shh, shh. Just bear with it for a moment.”

Chiyou shuddered at the sudden cold she felt on her face.

‘It’s in situations like this that you can really tell he’s not human.’

While the cold hands of Bluebeard were fiddling with Chiyou’s face, Toon had already finished all his tasks.

『Everything is completed.』

“Uh, uh, then wait a moment. Here, like this… There. Is it right?”

“Ah…!”

Suddenly, Chiyou found herself making eye contact with Bluebeard. She knew of his overwhelming attack power but was surprised to find he also possessed such healing skills.

Chiyou, impressed anew by Bluebeard, formally greeted him.

“It’s a pleasure to meet you, Count. My name is Chiyou.”

“I am called Le. Have you heard the name before?”

“Of course. There’s no one who doesn’t know of your presence, Count Le, Bluebeard.”

“Heh, I’m a bit embarrassed, actually.”

Bluebeard made a modest joke as he shook hands with Chiyou.

Only after that did Chiyou notice the powerful entity that had captivated Toon’s gaze, as well as the space they were in.

“What is that…?”

The glowing red crystal was pulsating like it was bleeding. The thing inside it could hardly be called a living creature.

It resembled a completely wrecked slime, streched and pulled into an unidentifiable mess.


Looking at the grotesque creature inside the crystal, Chiyou realized where she was and what that thing was.

“If you’ve fed enough to open your eyes, shouldn’t you at least pretend to awaken?”

Bluebeard walked up to the red crystal and tapped the wall with his staff.

Clang, clang, clang!

After the brisk sound, a part of the slime inside the crystal moved.

‘It’ was opening its eyes.

As the trembling body of the slime split open, revealing a flickering eyeball, Bluebeard opened his arms, welcoming his friend and another part of himself.

“Welcome back.”

The words of Bluebeard alone were not enough to fill in all of Chiyou’s guesses. However, there was another figure present besides Chiyou.

Toon bowed his head towards the crystal.

『Count’s second vassal, Toon, greets Lord Ghibrid.』

One of the Fragments of the Demon King, Ghibrid, had opened his eyes.

‘This is Ghibrid… Another piece of the three Demon Kings looks like this.’

Chiyou saw the mangled Ghibrid.

Even she was momentarily taken aback by its gruesome appearance. In that short moment, Ghibrid’s eyeball rolled towards her.

“It’s an honor to meet you, lord Ghibrid. My name is Chiyou.”

As their eyes met, Chiyou hastily bowed, showing her respect.

Despite having clearly seen Toon’s greeting, she had almost forgotten to do the same. She blamed herself, but neither Ghibrid nor Bluebeard said anything.

“Can you stand?”

Bluebeard asked, but Ghibrid did not respond.


Chiyou cautiously lifted her head to look at Ghibrid. Without a mouth to be found anywhere, Ghibrid’s eyeballs moved left and right.”

Tsk, to think after consuming the souls of thirty-eight thousand four hundred and seventy-seven, we only managed to awaken one eye. If I had known it would come to this, I should have started with Pyrot-Cocri.”

“!”

Bubbles boiled up within the crimson crystal.

Ghibrid, observing the ‘angry expression’, watched as Bluebeard chuckled.

“Chuckles, such temperament! But then again, it’s our dear Toon’s folly that you can’t open but one eye.”

『My apologies. I will immediately gather the Wave Monsters-』

“Enough! Shut up for now! You still don’t know how to use that big head of yours. To think you’re still fixated on the waves!”

When Lega bellowed, Toon bowed his head as if ashamed. It was around this time that Chiyou decided to speak up.

“There may be no jars, but the efficacy of the Wave itself hasn’t decreased.”

“Ho…”

Bluebeard looked at her with an intrigued expression.

“Do you know why I’ve forbidden the Waves?”

Chiyou, always quick to seize an opportunity to make a case for herself, knew this.

Even without jars, the Wave could proceed.

Moreover, she found out that Toon could hold nearly 30,000 souls within himself.

So, she thought.

If the purpose of needing souls was to awaken Ghibrid?

Then, by continuously progressing the Wave, accumulating souls within Toon and consistently supplying them to Ghibrid should not pose a major issue.

Thus, she compared the past with the present.


And she realized one thing.

“Perhaps…

The reason Bluebeard talks this way must be due to a changed element.

Of course, there was only one such element.

“I suspect it’s because Lord Ghibrid has awakened. When the Earl opened his eyes, despite informing the Vatican, it took them quite some time to confirm that fact.”

“Indeed. Why is that?”

“They had believed that the Count, lord Ghibrid, and Pyrot-Cocri wouldn’t remain on the continent. However, that’s not the case now. They know that Lord Ghibrid and Pyrot-Cocri are here, in the New Continent Erika. Therefore…”

“The pesky proxy will soon find out too. There’s also the matter of the fly.”

Bluebeard continued from there. Chiyou knew her guess was on point.

‘The pesky proxy must be the Pope. And the fly—Alexander’s dragon.’

Her knack for situation analysis and insights, having led the Shinobigumi in information warfare, was indeed exceptional.

“Hmmm… So, what should we do?”

Bluebeard wore a satisfied look.

A question that wasn’t really a question, merely a test to hear her thoughts despite knowing the answer.

“To the best of my knowledge, the first step is to wait until Lord Ghibrid fully recovers his strength. However, since Lord Ghibrid’s recovery requires additional souls, the method my subordinates and I have been using to collect souls until now will take a considerable amount of time for his recovery. Therefore-”

“Therefore.”

“-We may need to personally intervene, perhaps the Count or Toon. To consume all the souls necessary for awakening Lord Ghibrid in one fell swoop.”

“Correct. There’s no need to waste time with half-hearted Waves anymore. Toon!”

『Yes, my lord.』

“How much time do we need to gather four times the number of souls than this Wave?”

『If we gather from all the sources of demons, it would take about two months.』

Bluebeard nodded. It was a command that even Chiyou found startling.

This third Wave was already significantly larger than the first and second, yet now they were planning for four times that amount!

“Are you listening, Ghibrid?”

“It seems we need two months for you to rise. In that time, we must find where Pyrot-Cocri is hiding.”

As Chiyou nodded to Bluebeard’s words, she wondered if different Demon King’s Fragment had intentionally hidden such things from each other.

‘Well, it’s possible they didn’t have the luxury to worry about that while retreating from the Second Human-Demon War. Anyway, it’s clear now that Bluebeard came here with the sole purpose of finding Ghibrid’s hiding place. Or, considering our earlier conversation, would he have awakened Pyrot-Cocri first if he had found it?’

By the time Chiyou finished her thoughts, Bluebeard, who had been conversing with Ghibrid and Toon, turned to look at her. It was a moment Chiyou had dreamed of ever since she left the old continent to decide on the location of the fortress.

“And Chiyou”, he said, “how about you give working together a try?”

At Bluebeard’s suggestion, Chiyou bit her lower lip firmly. The moment she had sensed would become reality since she was brought here had finally arrived.

Chiyou’s hunch proved right. ***

A crucial message had arrived from the Vatican to Leeha, who was still struggling to come to terms with the situation even now.

“Must be really urgent, huh?”

“Yes, indeed. I was wondering why they suddenly contacted us…”

The assembly of players at the Vatican astonished Leeha, as it practically brought together a significant portion of the expedition members from the previous voyage to the new continent.

‘After all, most of them did participate in the third wave, so maybe this is expected. Biyemi and Petyr must have left earlier, so they won’t be here.’

Under normal circumstances, these players wouldn’t have met due to mismatched login times, but this occasion was different.

Aside from those already allied with Chiyou’s side, nearly all present were familiar faces to Leeha. Leeha tried to greet the players assembled in the Pope’s audience chamber, but Fernand, standing next to the Pope, shook his head.

“Leeha-nim, I apologize for not being able to greet you after such a long time, but we have more pressing matters at hand-”

“Ah, yes. Of course. Sorry for being late.”

As Leeha joined the ranks with an awkward smile, the atmosphere slightly lightened. Leeha thought his actions might have caused ridicule among the players, but that wasn’t the case. They felt a bit relieved seeing Leeha amidst the tense and fearful mood sparked by the grim story the Pope was about to unfold.

“Are you too at ease, Luger?”

“Me? Why would I rely on nonsense from that guy?”

Kidd and Luger whispered quietly amongst themselves in the ranks.

Leeha waved a small greeting at them, but all he got in return was them turning their noses up at him.

“Though I’ve briefly mentioned it, now that everyone is assembled, I will speak again. 40 minutes ago, I received a report from a bishop in Juma City on the new continent.”

The previously briefed players’ faces darkened again. Especially when the Pope caught Leeha’s last gaze.

“Are you ready to hear this?”

seemed to be the question in his eyes. Just as Leeha started to feel anxious, the Pope continued, “One of the Demon King’s Fragments… a strong presence of Ghibrid was detected.”

“Dem- Demon King’s Fragment? Bluebeard, and, those guys?”

“The world… to think, demon King’s Fragment!”

“If we couldn’t even handle Toon, how are we supposed to deal with this?”

“It’s not even about Toon; surviving this wave was tough enough. People died-”

The players who were yet to receive the full news bristled at the revelation.

The power of Ghibrid was immeasurable but, after all, if it’s a Demon King’s Fragment, one fact was certain.

‘At least equal to Bluebeard!’

The faces of the informed players couldn’t possibly brighten. The situation was hopeless if both Ghibrid and Bluebeard joined forces, as handling even Toon was proving too much.

“I felt it too. Fortunately, the intense aura was only felt the first time. The creature does not entirely conceal its presence.”

The Golden Knight, leaning against a pillar, took up the Pope’s words.

To imply that even Bailephus, transformed into a human form, sensed Ghibrid’s mana. However, their opinions on Ghibrid’s ‘state’ slightly differed from the Pope’s.

“That’s correct, dragon-nim. Our bishop also mentioned still sensing Ghibrid’s presence. Yet, it’s not confirmed if it has awakened.”
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 606

				
Arcane Sniper 606

“Hmm, it seems to me that although it has awakened, it has not regained its strength. If they’re not planning an immediate attack, it’s in their nature to conceal their presence. But if they can’t even manage that, it might mean they’re literally just with opened eyes, not fully operational.”

“This could very well be humanity’s last hope…”

The conversation between Bailephus and the Pope captured the attention of those present.

Both were top-class NPCs.

Each word they uttered was almost a hint towards the events that would unfold.

The Pope sighed and Bailephus’s brows furrowed slightly. Even an Ancient Gold Dragon doesn’t know everything.

The other users were aware of the current predicament but were at a loss over how it came to be, making it challenging to speculate easily.

“If we can figure out how Le awakened Ghibrid, we might be able to understand the situation better…

“Wha? Wha-wha-wha–!?”

Except for one person present.

“-Leeha?”

“Leeha-nim?”

Leeha’s eyes widened enormously.

Blaugrunn was flustered, looking back and forth between Bailephus and Leeha, but Leeha was too preoccupied to notice Blaugrunn.

As soon as he heard Bailephus’s words, Leeha’s mind started racing faster than ever before.

A single idea!

It completely captivated his mind.

‘Biyemi-nim, Petyr… they’re not here!’

Leeha scanned the surroundings.


Biyemi-nim and Petyr were not present. Meaning, he was the only one aware of ‘the situation’.

The eyes of those nearby, including Kijung and Bobae, and Shin Nara, were all focused on Leeha’s lips.

Leeha swallowed nervously.

“… I think… I know something.”

“What do you mean?”

“How Le woke Ghibrid… I roughly know it-”

“How could you know that? Can you explain in detail?”

Leeha hesitated for a moment.

This could be an opportunity to gain something. But should he exploit ‘information’ even in such a critical situation?

For now, at least!

“I’m not sure where to start, but…”

Leeha decided to just explain.

During the third wave, it was Biyemi-nim and Petyr who had suggested destroying the jar to Leeha.

They were quick-witted and cunning, but even they hadn’t fully grasped the purpose behind it.

Nobody present there, nor ‘ever’, had clearly spoken about it.

For Biyemi, it was a task directly ordered by Bluebeard to Toon, and Chiyou was cooperating, so they vaguely guessed the jar was of utmost importance for some reason.

They merely speculated it would either strengthen Toon’s power or, perhaps, enhance Bluebeard’s power, but nothing concrete.

“But, that wasn’t what they intended to use it for!”

The fact that, during the Second Human-Demon War, they fed on human souls was unknown to both Leeha and the others, Biyemi and Petyr included. As a result, predicting how it was to be used was challenging. Only Chiyou, who had traveled far and wide in search of the jar, knew this fact and had thus begun to suspect the potential uses of the soul.

Leeha quickly organized his thoughts and started speaking hesitantly. He talked about how the entire wave was planned, with no initial intention of destroying Juma City. Some humans had built a fortress in a specific area of the New Continent, safeguarding and cooperating in the collection and storage of souls for Toon. This directive had come from Bluebeard. Out of the five jars, he had managed to destroy three, but two still remained. In a dramatic reveal, Bluebeard had shown up at the fortress at the last moment. And most shockingly, Toon had been harboring over 10,000 souls within him.


“If we piece all this together…it seems likely that the souls of the players who died in the wave were used to resurrect Ghibrid. Talking in the ballpark of over 30,000 souls.”

It was uncertain whether it was Bailephus who groaned first or the Pope who exclaimed, “Lord, ahlo”, but the players were left clueless. The revelation that the wave was a strategic move by the Demon King’s Army left them stunned.

“What…what are you saying? That the entire wave was just a show?”

“More than a show…a bait, rather. Bait to lure the players.”

Seeing Kijung’s wide-eyed look, Leeha nodded. Yet, agreeing with this was hard.

“To gather them and increase the death toll among the players? Impossible! That doesn’t make any sense!”

“You’re right, Leeha-ssi. While labeled a ‘wave’, these monsters were not mere illusions. They had a real presence, which the Demon King’s Army would’ve had to exhaust as well. Why go through all this?”

“Exactly! If they had deployed enough monsters for the first, second, and third waves all at once during the first wave? The New Continent would have been impenetrable…

The news, coming less than a day after the third wave, plunged Bobae, Hyein, and even Shin Na Le into confusion.

The players swarmed Leeha, acting as if he was the prime culprit behind these events. Amidst the ensuing uproar at a corner of the Vatican, Luger quietly spoke up.

“Seems like none of you were really enjoying this.”

His voice was not loud, but it clearly reached the players’ ears, perhaps his confident tone helped calm the unrest a bit.

“What do you mean, Luger? You knew?”

“Know? Can’t say for sure if ‘knowing’ is the right word, but if it counts as knowing, then yes.”

Leeha’s question prompted Luger to tilt his head and respond.

Luger, with Kidd fiddling with his hat brim by his side, hadn’t evidently had a deep discussion regarding the incident, but their confidence indicated they had some insight, perceivable by the other players.

“How could you?! Knowing yet not saying-”

“Stupid. Don’t you understand what we’re dealing with here?”

“Huh?”

Luger’s expression soured, but upon realizing Leeha didn’t understand, he sighed and explained.


“Didn’t someone mention earlier that we couldn’t even capture Toon until recently, let alone Bluebeard? That was the root of this mess, wasn’t it?”

Though it wasn’t a question aimed at anyone in particular, the players could vaguely grasp what he was trying to communicate.

– It doesn’t make sense for the Demon King’s Army to utilize the waves inefficiently.

– Within the logic of Middle Earth’s system, there’s only one way to make sense of something that inherently doesn’t – through a systemic understanding.

This was the point Luger wanted to stress.”

It’s not that it doesn’t make sense, it’s about making it make sense…? To do that-”

“Right. On the surface, this wave was ostensibly for the collection of souls for Ghibrid, but ‘in reality’, it was to help users level up. It was an event meant to strengthen us, who are still struggling to level up. Damn it, this is a game. It’s ridiculous that not a single person can see the game as a game.”

With those words, Luger suddenly lifted his Cobalt Blue Python revolver.

In an instant, he had his gun pointed at Alexander.

“Kyaa!”

“Luger-nim? What are you doing?!”

Amidst the sudden chaos, Alexander, the one at gunpoint, was unmoved, as was Bailephus.

“You knew too, Alexander. After leeching off the wave three times, how much do you think you’ve grown?”

“…I won’t answer. If you don’t lower your gun immediately, I can ensure you’re permanently banned from the Vatican.”

“Huh, acting all high and mighty.”

Viewing it as a game.

Luger believed that the reason for the wave was because the users’ levels and stages of growth had not reached what the system of Middle Earth desired.

Kidd seemed to somewhat agree with him.

Indeed, with each wave, the users’ levels, experience points, and stats significantly increased, and they greatly benefited from that.

“There’s logic to it. And even if we don’t embrace that line of thought, we can still ponder the waves from a ‘nominal’ understanding. There must have been a limit to their waves too, but what if they had unleashed all monsters in the first wave?”

“It’s not a question of what would happen, Kidd! I told you. If they had sent the monsters of the third wave’s caliber in the first, Juma City would’ve been utterly destroyed… Ah…?!”

Shin Nara was responding to Kidd’s statement, but she too realized something mid-sentence.

“Luger and I might have seen the sequence differently, but the purpose of Bluebeard and Toon was soul collection. If they had used all the wave monsters initially, Juma City would’ve been completely annihilated, leaving no users wanting to head back to the new continent.

Therefore-”

“A failure to achieve their objective… I see. They needed to sacrifice the monsters, to gather more souls, to lure more users.”

“That’s right. I believe asking the Gold Dragon would offer further insights.”

Kidd slightly tilted his hat brim upwards towards Bailephus.

Bailephus understood the terms ‘user’ and ‘game’ perfectly well, but Kidd’s words were not about that at the moment.

The reason Bluebeard and Toon sacrificed a number of wave monsters was singular.

“Even if you combined all monsters from the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd waves, they couldn’t match a single Ghibrid.”

The sacrifice of the many for the sake of one significant entity. Despite the countless monsters, it was declared that none were as crucial as the Demon King’s Fragment—Ghibrid.

The company fell silent for a moment.

What should be done moving forward?

While all had grown considerably, the enemy remained formidable. Predicting the outcome was difficult as is, and with Ghibrid’s appearance, what could happen?

When users were confused, it was the role of NPCs to provide direction.

“If Ha Leeha’s words are true, Ghibrid hasn’t fully regained his strength. Naturally, they would gather more monsters than in this wave to completely destroy Juma City.”

“They’ll use our assumption of a 4th wave to their advantage.”

Once the schedule for the 4th wave is roughly known, users would joyfully gather again. However, this time it would signify an attack far beyond a simple ‘wave.’

“Originally, Bluebeard wanted 50,000 souls. That number would be enough to get Ghibrid moving at least. We need to prepare for that. If Ghibrid fully awakens…

“It would be troublesome. If Ghibrid, already a challenge, adds to our troubles, the awakening of Pyrot-Cocri would become a certainty. We must stop them by any means necessary before their minions solidify their power!”

The Pope exclaimed, gripping the armrest of his chair as if to break it.

However, standing by the Pope, fernand wore a look of despair.

‘We must stop them’, but how?

“It’d be great if we could disperse them before they gather, but that’s difficult. As you know, the roots of the demons are all connected. The reason Bailephus can roughly predict the timing of the waves is because we can confirm the movements through the demon’s roots. Needless to say, we can’t access those ‘roots.'”
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With the only World Tree that could have stopped it now gone, nothing seemed capable of thwarting its power, save for a tiny seed buried beneath the land of Gaza City. At least, for the moment.

“Therefore, there’s only one option left, isn’t that right, fernand?”

“Your Holiness…?”

The Pope stood up, the symbol of the divine proxy above his head sparkling with light. Shivers ran down the spine of the users watching him. Had he urgently gathered them here merely to convey vital information?

“We must establish a Sanctuary. To prevent their roots from connecting, I entrust you to secure a sanctuary within the land of New Continent Erika.”

Whoosh!

It was natural for a hologram window to appear before them.

『Sanctification』

Description: “Now that we have lost the World Tree, the only way to prevent the source of the demons from spreading is this. Isn’t New Continent Erika also a place touched by the breath of God? Then there must be the ‘Divine Staff’ where we can form the Holy Commandment, containing the voice of the supreme god Ahlo. However, unless our prayers reach it, the sacrament has never been activated before.

I ask you to quickly find the Divine Staff before the Demon King’s Army fully conquer the new continent. A communique will be sent to all nations and people of Lope Continent, not just those here. It’s a difficult task, but I believe it’s not impossible. For the sake of all humanity, as well as every life on Lope and New Continent Erika…

The bell containing God’s voice, ‘Holy Spirit’, can only grow on a special object known as the 『Divine Staff』.

Secure the Divine Staff located throughout the continent of Erika, including the existing demon base, and ensure that Holy Spirit resides there.

Contents:

1. Secure the Divine Staff within New Continent Erika within 15 days.

2. Protect the Divine Staff for 21 days after securing it.

Reward: ?

Failure Conditions:

1. Fail to secure the Divine Staff within the deadline.

2. Fail to protect the Divine Staff for 21 days after securing it.


Failure: ?

– Will you accept?

‘Holy Spirit… Divine Staff…’ Leeha quickly read through the hologram window.

Securing the Divine Staff within 15 days and protecting it for 21 days meant that the bell, known as Holy Spirit, would reside in the Divine Staff.

‘The World Tree used the power of mystical creatures to block demons. Does this mean we will block it with the power of the divine?’

While the context suggested something formed, it appeared more likely to be plant-like than animal-like, though it was hard to be certain at present.

“If the Divine Staff inhabited by the Holy Spirit is established, the remnants of demons dare not approach. We’ll be able to surface and eliminate them one by one before their powers converge. Do you think you can do it?”

The Pope looked over the users, intensifying his voice. However, it seemed that even Fernand, affiliated with Ezwen, did not fully understand the sacrament and Holy Spirit.

“With all due respect, Your Holiness, the people present here do not know what the 『Divine Staff』 is.”

“It is, literally, like the footstep of God on earth. One of the signs that the manifesting divine has bestowed upon the world. Like the will of God, it’s tall and straight. If you’ve seen an uncorrupted World Tree or any World Tree, it might feel similar. But since it’s a crystal used by the divine, it doesn’t grow stems or leaves.”

Despite the Pope’s answer to Fernand’s question, it remained a perplexing explanation. Of course, Leeha desired a much simpler analogy.

“Hmm, even with that explanation, it’s not very clear. Is it just an incredibly long staff?”

“If we must compare, yes. That’s also why we call it the Divine Staff.”

A tree-like, incredibly long staff. Only after hearing this physical description did the users reflect on their own memories.

After all, weren’t the users who had roamed the new continent through various methods and routes all gathered here now?Users who had reached further than any others pondered whether they had such an item in their memories.

“The attack to fully restore Ghibrid is already a given fact. So, should we consider this quest as a stepping stone for that moment? That’s why everyone is hesitant to accept it.”

It was understandable that the rewards were concealed, but the failure penalty was hidden as well.

“Even if I receive this reward, the next penalty could be even greater. Maybe it’s better to give up on quests related to the revival of Ghibrid at an appropriate time and focus on leveling up instead.”

The users were unusually cautious, partly because of Luger’s words.

“Play the game as it’s meant to be played.”


A simple but clear statement.

Considering reasons like Bluebeard’s journey to the New Continent, the revival of Ghibrid also seemed inevitable. Then, why rush into stopping it and risk receiving a failure penalty? Didn’t we fail to kill Toon at the origin of the last demons, despite our efforts? Even with Alexander and various tanks charging in, it was the same.

‘They’ were deployed to protect Toon. If Toon is being revived under the orders of Bluebeard as Ghibrid?

“Them…

‘The Archer of Demon King’ is very likely to reappear. Moreover, right now, I am…”

As Leeha thought of keywords like the Archer of Demon King and sniping, his head suddenly became cluttered. What to do if Toon appears during the attack aimed at reviving Ghibrid? At this moment, Leeha found himself unable to snipe at the mere sight of Toon entering his scope. He realized he had to overcome this, but knowing about the syndrome didn’t mean it could be easily fixed! “Damn it, what should I do?”

As Leeha was pressing his temples in frustration with various concerns, the person who stepped forward to the Pope was Kidd.

“If nobody else will, then I’ll do it myself.”

Casually lifting his hat, he looked around at the other users with a look of disdain.

“Kidd?”

Leeha looked at Kidd. Was he really the type to step forward in such situations? However, Kidd didn’t even glance at Leeha. The sound of Kidd’s boots echoed through the Vatican Hall. It was a solid sound.

“Most of you here probably haven’t experienced failing a quest. I guess at most one or two failures up till now.”

Especially if you’re a Top 10 ranker like Alexander or Lee Jiwon, you’d hardly experienced death, Kidd thought as he looked at them. In fact, Kidd’s guess was accurate. Leeha only failed once at the common quest in the demon’s origin, but wasn’t it that he succeeded in most quests?

“And yet… I’ve never died?”

Even considering death experiences? Compared to users who might not have failed quests but died a few times, Leeha’s record could be called that of a ‘gaming genius’.

“That’s why you’re all frozen. That memory of failure, the feeling that you might fail again this time.”

Kidd flipped his coat back. In the past, the inside of the coat, aside from a simple vest, might have just had a holster for the Crimson Geckos, but now it was quite differently equipped.

‘Some new weapon…?’

However, Kidd, being one of the famous outsiders, wouldn’t reveal all his cards. Leaving just a hint that he had grown, he quickly buttoned up his coat as others looked on, evidently disappointed.

“With just three waves, we have changed. Do you understand what that means?”


Kidd looked at Leeha.

Could it be because Leeha, who would normally have been the first to volunteer, was silent?

Even Leeha, upon catching Kidd’s gaze, could not fathom his intentions. However, he could feel a somehow regretful emotion amidst the stern look.

It was, so to speak, a piece of advice and persuasion from Kidd.

“… If you give up, no further change can come…”

Leeha was able to understand Kidd’s meaning.

The three waves, what had become of Leeha’s level and stats right now?

Above all, there was the upgraded synergy of close combat abilities using Koma and Blaugrunn, and the creation and utilization of a disposable sniper tower using Blaugrunn’s 『Levitation』.

As the corners of Leeha’s lips slowly lifted, so did Kidd’s, albeit faintly.

Naturally, another person, one among the trio, wouldn’t just stand by.

“What doesn’t kill me, makes me stronger”…

Luger snorted, slinging the barrel of his Cobalt Blue Python over his shoulder. Most people seemed to have realized something, showing impressed expressions.

Pei Wu wanted to applaud, though not everyone shared this sentiment.

“Ah, Nietzsche! Just in case someone thought he wasn’t German…”

“What? What? You know this saying, Leeha?”

“Know it? More than that! I’ve heard it hundreds of times during my military training!”

It was indeed one of those quotes that Korean adult men ‘had to’ listen to inevitably.

“Everyone’s having a hard time, and all they say every day is…

‘The old eagle must break its beak and talons to grow new ones’, or ‘God only gives us trials we can bear’, or ‘Iron strengthens as it is tempered!’

Do you know how annoying it is to listen to that in front of someone who’s lost their spirit?”

These were frequently quoted as inspirational sayings in places where soldiers were trained, regardless of the military branch!

Leeha’s lively voice and exaggerated actions drew a brief wave of laughter from the users.

It was only natural that the atmosphere, which had been gloomy until just a moment ago, was completely reversed.

“With Kidd and Luger like this, I can’t be left out! Your Holiness, I will also join the battle!”

The acceptance of the quest by Kidd, Luger, and then Leeha, soon spread to all users.

The Pope looked at the users with a proud expression.

“It is expected to be difficult, but I believe you can do it. The Holy Records are like a bunch of grapes, composed of six orbs…”

The Pope bowed his head and prayed for a moment.

When a white light gathered at his fingertips, he raised his head again and drew a pattern of light in the air.

“One might think it easy to find as it resembles a tree without branches or leaves. However, God bestows His love upon the young fledglings… There’s also a pattern to make it easier to recognize the Divine Staff. If you find the pattern with six circles connected like a bunch of grapes, you will find it.”

The most likely candidate in the Pope’s mind was Bailephus.

This was due to the expectation that taking advantage of a dragon’s features would enable rapid search.

Therefore, most descriptions regarding the Divine Staff continued to mention Bailephus.

“Ah, ah-ah, ah- That, that thing!”

“Hm? What’s wrong?”

However, the answer was somewhere else. The Pope turned his head towards where a commotion suddenly arose.

The person pointing at the pattern of light with their mouth agape was Leeha.

“That, that there!”

Six circles.

One at the bottom, two above it, and three at the very top. The pattern with six circles drawn like a bunch of grapes!

“I know where that is! Wow! I already know it! I’ve seen it before, that thing!”

Leeha had seen the Divine Staff before. And it wasn’t too long ago at that.
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“What, what!? Where did- where have I seen this before?”

“Huh——–?”

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Oh my……”

“Indeed, Leeha is a grand hero. It means he had already lit the lamp.”

“Damn, hit the jackpot. Completed a quest just like that!?”

The Pope’s question was quickly drowned out by the users’ reactions. Even Alexander and Bailephus could not close their mouths in surprise.

“Blaugrunn-ssi! That! Remember?”

“Oh, now that you mention it! That’s it! That thing from that time!”

In the midst of the commotion, Blaugrunn and Leeha faced each other, realizing what the item was.

Suddenly, the mood inside the Vatican became festive, with only the two of them staring at each other in an awkward silence.

“To think that the person who didn’t even want to take on a quest a moment ago knew the solution…

“Damn it. This is why I hate that guy.”

“And you used that out-of-place quote just to involve him.”

Kidd jabbed Luger in the ribs, making his face turn bright red.

“Who? Me, pulling him in? It was because of the other guys-”

“Haha, understood.”

Was it the panic when caught, or the anger at the absurd comment? Kidd burst into laughter seeing Luger flustered.

It was definitely the Demon King’s Army that made the first move.


It was planned that even if they could take out one eye of Ghibrid, they would launch a total attack disguised as the 4th wave, perfectly united by the forces of Bluebeard, Toon, and their allies Chiyou’s Side.

They kept it a complete secret, intending to strike humanity’s alliance from behind, but the Vatican and the human alliance were not so easily fooled.

The ace may have been thrown by the Demon Army but it was the human alliance who got to return the serve.

“Finish all preparations within 3 days! Afterward, under Leeha’s guidance, we will proceed with the conquest of the Divine Staff!” announced the Pope, a command that immediately reached the heads of every nation, including Minis.

“So, you’re planning to wrap this up in just 3 days.”

“This crazy guy!”

“You’ve been ‘Enhancing’ all this time. Can’t you use that?”

The first place Leeha visited was Gaza City.

Bottleneck looked like he wanted to hit Leeha with a hammer right then and there.

“Why- why not entrust it there! This important thing-”

“Seriously. When I said I’d leave the Black Bass enhancement to you, you made all kinds of displeased faces. And though the bonobo paleos are quite skillful and do a good job. What about you, Bottleneck-ssi? Is there something you can’t do? Above all-”

Leeha rummaged through his bag and took out a book.

Fortunately, the Black Bass entrusted to the bonobo paleos had completed all the necessary ‘analysis’ for enhancement.

“Thanks for trusting us. Now that we know the direction for the enhancement and the structure of the weapon, all that’s left is to implement it.”

“Surely, it’s not going to be just verbal, right?”

“Kuhuhu, what do you think?”

“Such greedy monkeys…”

Was it because Luger told them to get lost(?) or because of the difficulty of enhancing Black Bass? The condition proposed by Kobah, the spirit of bonobo paleo, was utterly outrageous.

There was not a single required item for the enhancement, yet they demanded a list of about 13 items to be given for the prosperity of the bonobo paleos and their comfortable life in the Lava Jungle.

And it wasn’t just about collecting one of each; Leeha was speechless upon finding out he had to continue bringing several items regularly.


‘If I hadn’t learned the Magma Eruption skill, it would’ve been a huge problem.’

Moreover, all the materials regarding Black Bass were already received as a reward! There was no more reason for Leeha to be swayed by the bonobo paleos.

“Here, here! Start with this!”

“Eh, what’s this?”

“Everything about Black Bass.”

“Who dares to say such a thing-”

Despite frowning, Bottleneck flipped through the book rapidly. His gaping mouth closed in an instant.”

Heh, there were guys who knew about enhancements even before old man Bottleneck. That’s what Won Seung said.”

Normally, he would’ve accepted the quests from the bonobo paleos while crying over mustard, so to speak.

But, with a better option available, and since Bottleneck had experience enhancing Ram Hwajung’s wand and Kijung’s shield in the past,

“Although the structure is completely different from muskets…

Bottleneck was also the one who made all the ammunition used in the Three Musketeers’ guns. In other words, with the Black Bass’s 『Strategy Guide』 analyzed by the bonobo paleos, Bottleneck should be able to enhance it smoothly according to Leeha’s calculations.

“Can you really do it?”

“If I can’t do it after seeing this, I might as well return my hammer. It’s made so that anyone with eyes and hands can do it.”

“No way, it seemed awfully complicated with all sorts of figures-”

“That’s from the perspective of an ordinary person like you, lord! If the environment is ready, there’s not a single dwarf who can’t do it! Fine, not 3 days but I’ll get it done in 2 days sharp! This is all we have to do!”

Bottleneck then shoved the book inside his shirt.

Though rough with words, he clearly knew the value of the material.

“Can you really do it in two days?”

“If I stop all other work and focus, it’s more than possible. Plus… Ahem-”


Bottleneck, stroking his bushy mustache, turned his head.

“-Anyway, you’re the lord. If I can’t satisfy the lord’s command, it’s a blow to the face for the commander of the engineering corps. Beard Brothers! Prepare the lava! We’re starting the enhancement right away!”

While Bottleneck hurriedly gave orders to the Beard Brothers, feeling a bit embarrassed, it didn’t diminish Leeha’s admiration.

The only way Leeha could express the bubbling emotion from within was one.

“Kuh… Ajussi!”

“Hey, don’t hug me! I have no interest in hugging a man, get away!”

Leeha, who was significantly taller, hugged the much shorter Bottleneck and shook him side to side without mercy.

Though short, Bottleneck’s long beard would’ve been seen dangling messily between Leeha’s legs from behind.

“This is dreadful, lord…

Blaugrunn sighed deeply and shook his head.

And so, two days later,

Leeha was finally about to get the chance to acquire the 『Enhanced Legendary Black Bass』.

‘Now, the only thing left is my own transformation.’

Even while dancing joyfully with Bottleneck, Leeha’s mind was still racing.

When Black Bass was unavailable, he painfully realized what was needed — in an uncertain situation when such a crisis could happen again, one thing was necessary.

‘I need a new skill. One that can be used with a musket, something aggressive and certain. And…

It wasn’t just that.

Because of the greatest challenge Leeha currently faced, his next destination could only be one place.

The capital of Fibiel, aelstock.

He had to meet Browless of the Musket Academy.

“Heh, meeting Leeha-nim’s teacher, I’m looking forward to it?”

“There’s not much to look forward to. Huhuhu, the smell of the capital after so long~”

Recently, the only place Leeha had visited in the old continent was Gaza City.

After spending a significant amount of time only in the new continent, for Leeha, Fibiel’s old continent capital, aelstock, was a place he hadn’t visited in a long time.

‘Come to think of it, I heard that Madam Lu is running the Holy Grill here?’

After Zu moved to the Gaza City branch, managing the capital branch was Lu, who was from the original Candle Castle. The chef there, Kiyo-Mifgar, became the chef-manager, Leeha remembered.

‘The pinnacle of Fibiel NPC Intelligence Guild… In some ways, madam Lu has a far superior knack than Madam Ju.’

Leeha made his way toward the Holy Grill. I considered heading towards my goal, but decided against it for the moment.

What I really needed information on was the location to clear Black Bass’ fifth quest!

But wasn’t Black Bass supposed to be under Bottleneck’s care for two days of enhancement?

The lack of information and a foreboding feeling that I might just be sniffing around for trouble prevented me from proceeding.

“Still, he is our master! Just thinking about Leeha getting scolded fills my heart with joy.”

“Oh? So that’s how you’ve been seeing me?”

“Since even our Lord doesn’t scold Leeha, it’s more of a compliment, really.”

“Heh, but even if you meet the master, you’re unlikely to see me getting told off.”

“Huh? But he’s the master, isn’t he?”

“Well, a master in Middle Earth is indeed a master, but…”

Leeha chuckled for a moment while conversing with Blaugrunn.

Indeed, there was much to learn from Browless about handling muskets and surviving in Middle Earth; yet for Leeha, a true ‘master’ wasn’t only Browless.

Wasn’t the retired shooter who corrected his posture and taught him air rifle shooting a master as well?

If one were to judge by that standard, Browless was merely one of Leeha’s masters.

“But he was the one who handed over Black Bass and taught you how to shoot, right?”

“Well, yes, he gave me Black Bass, but teaching me how to snipe is a bit of a stretch.”

For Leeha, there was truly only one person that could be considered the ‘master’.

“Then who taught you to snipe?”

“…The platoon leader. The sniping platoon leader.”

“The sniping leader?”

“Well, Blaugrunn, even if I told you, you probably wouldn’t understand.”

Leeha smiled but shivered slightly.

The person who transformed Leeha from merely a shooting enthusiast or military otaku into a real ‘sniper’ was indeed the army’s sniping platoon leader.

Ordinary civilians would never handle a sniper bolt-action rifle, one of the firearms strictly off-limits to them.

Most South Korean men who have served in the military have the chance to handle submachine guns, rifles, and even machine guns and handguns, depending on their position, as well as mortars and recoilless rifles.

However, sniper rifles are an exception.

They are something a common soldier could never touch, a privilege reserved solely for professional soldiers.

Hence, the moment one handles a sniper rifle, it’s natural for all involved to be military personnel, specially assigned to a sniper role – not something one starts with.

Choosing someone from among the NCO trainees with exceptional shooting skills or from the ranks based on outstanding marksmanship to then transition into an NCO role is part of South Korea’s sniper system.

Therefore, the institution responsible for gathering these ‘still green’ soldiers and training them was an absolute necessity.

“I wonder how Master Sergeant Kim is doing. I was deployed at the time of my accident.”

Sniping platoon leader, master Sergeant Kim.

Though Leeha recalled him with a tone of longing, it seemed to give him goosebumps.

For Leeha, who could receive even guerrilla or severe winter training with a smile, the worst training was undoubtedly Master Sergeant Kim’s sniping training.

“Brrr, just talking about this makes me feel cold, so cold. Let’s hurry, we’re almost there.”

“Yes! Let’s go!”

Thud…

Stepping into the Brown Bess Musket Academy’s drill ground after a long time, the pleasant sound of musket fire filled the air.

Leeha approached Browless, who was on the training ground.

With a menacing face devoid of eyebrows, always wearing his hat deep on his head casting deep shadows, ‘menacing’ was the word that fit this NPC best.

However, today, for some reason, he was beaming with joy.

“That’s right. Your posture isn’t bad, good. With a bit more practice—”

“Master, it’s been a while since I last saw you.”

“-Ah, Leeha! How long has it been!”

Browless greeted Leeha with an unusually bright expression and a warm smile.

The awkwardness of his demeanor was enough to evoke involuntary laughter.

(To be continued…)
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With a laugh, the speaker said, “Ah, yes. It’s been a while since I’ve been able to visit and now here I am finally greeting you. Have you been well?”

“Of course! I’ve been fine—no, this isn’t the time for that, let’s go inside to talk. You should keep on practicing.”

Browless gently patted the shoulder of the newcomer, a gesture that even the onlookers, including Leeha, found surprisingly warm. Such friendly actions were almost foreign to them.

‘Did the headmaster take a liking to them? Or is it just that the academy is doing quite well these days?’

Leeha observed Browless treating the novice player with warmth. And the player was a Miyaw, of all races!

Choosing a Musketeer class, no less, when most of their kind leaned towards close-range heavy damage roles!

‘It’s an unusual combination, indeed. Playing the game must be incredibly challenging for them.’

Leeha silently wished the newcomer luck when suddenly, Browless wrapped an arm around his shoulder.

“What are you looking at? Let’s go.”

“Yes, ah, okay.”

Arm in arm!?

As Leeha panicked internally, Blaugrunn, following him, laughed quietly.

Blaugrunn: You really can’t say no to the master, can you?

Leeha: It’s not that! It just feels awkward, awkward because Headmaster Browless isn’t usually like this, you know?

What could possibly be so amusing?

Leeha was nearly dragged into the academy headmaster’s office by Browless.

Only when they arrived did Browless notice Blaugrunn.

After a moment of surprise, Browless doffed his hat in a polite greeting.

“It’s been a long time since I’ve seen a dragon. I apologize for not greeting you earlier.”


“Oh, as expected… indeed, as expected. No need, I’m here today merely as Leeha’s partner, so don’t worry about it.”

The once brash and arrogant young Blaugrunn now exhibited a much softer demeanor. Though to Leeha, seeing Blaugrunn gesturing for Browless to sit while speaking politely still seemed a far reach.

Browless, smiling, prepared three cups of tea.

Blaugrunn, now seemingly done exploring, sat a little away, sipping his tea.

“So, what brings you here?”

“There were things I hadn’t yet said… and things I was curious about.”

“I’ve heard about Brown and Elizabeth.”

“Yes. Yes?! Ah- well, perhaps-”

“Mm. Kidd comes by quite often.”

Despite always appearing brusque and speaking oddly, Kidd seemed to genuinely care for his original mentor.

Leeha found the thought amusing.

Nevertheless, there were recent developments Browless was yet unaware of, and so Leeha shared them. Skipping over what Browless already knew about the wave in Toin, Leeha quickly relayed how he had gathered souls and somewhat successfully used them for Ghibrid’s restoration.

“So, it has come to that. Ghibrid has…”

“If only I had aimed a bit more clearly… I could have taken care of it all.”

Browless’s expression darkened again.

Leeha felt the same pang of regret.

Other players could excuse their failure by their lack of awareness of the wave’s true nature.

But what about Leeha?

Even Biyemi and Petyr, who had somewhat understood the secrets of the jar, lacked the ability to prevent Ghibrid’s revival.

But Leeha?


‘I could have… done something!’

Of the five jars containing 50,000 souls, Leeha had managed to break only three.

Yet, it was not a satisfying outcome. This was another reason for Leeha’s visit.

If only he hadn’t opted for the high magnification, and instead used a lower 2x magnification for his snipe.’

His calculations for adjusting the gun’s aim toward the next target jar would have been much quicker.

He might even have spotted Chiyou running toward the jar.

Then, by choosing to shoot the jar Chiyou was trying to protect first, he might have proceeded differently!

“It couldn’t possibly be a lack of skill on your part. Jars, you say? Moreover, if all five were exposed, even more so. Under normal circumstances, it would have taken less than 2 seconds to smash all five of them.”

“…That’s correct.”

With just that much explanation, Browless was able to vividly reconstruct the situation at that time. Clearly, from his position atop the fortress roof, the jars were all visible to Leeha. Even more, they were arranged in a line. Yet, why the failure? The reason Leeha couldn’t bring himself to utter was also known to Browless.

“Was it indeed the dinosaur that posed a problem?”

At Browless’s words, Leeha found himself unable to reply.

Is it the fear? It feels like there’s no fear. One could say there’s no fear. But the moment the thought of the dinosaur being contained within the scope crossed his mind, his body escaped the control of his mind.

Seeing Leeha trembling slightly with excitement, tension, and fear, Browless bowed his head.

“To think, someone who had faced Bluebeard, becoming like this facing a vassal of Bluebeard… No, it’s precisely because the fearsome reputation of the Dinosaur is indeed terrifying.”

For Leeha, who had fought against stronger entities, the only true fear was the existence of the dinosaur.

Biting his lip as he listened to Browless, Leeha knew too well from numerous teachings that lowering his head at times like these was foolish.

“Can’t we think of various attack methods using muskets or Black Bass? If we could snipe any enemy in a single shot… I think we could overcome it.”

This was precisely why Leeha wanted to learn a new skill.

A secret skill to shake off the heart’s ailment! With belief in his own attack, he was sure to win.


Browless, meeting Leeha’s wide-open eyes, slowly shook his head.

“It’s the fate of a Musketeer.”

“Excuse me?”

“All that is permitted to us is arms alone. There are a few techniques or magics to assist that, but most of those you already know.”

“… So, you mean there’s a penalty for wielding too strong a weapon? But- haven’t we already paid the price with the ‘loading time’, a huge penalty itself? Having overcome that now-”

“That’s precisely the skill. Having overcome that is our technique, our magic.”

The statement implies that only arms are permitted. This is the fate of users wielding the single most powerful item, meaning only ‘skills attached to the arms’ can be used, carrying a double implication.

“Ah…”

“Besides, you already have the capability to create various combinations, including with the Dragon Lord by your side. That alone should suffice without issue.”

At Browless’s words, Leeha glanced at Blaugrunn.

Expressing “I know nothing~” while sipping tea, Blaugrunn gave Leeha a smile upon seeing his face.

The silent support brought a smirk to Leeha’s face.

Perhaps, as Browless said, all of this was merely a burden born from his own greed.

He already possessed items far more powerful than most.

He was the first personal lord of Middle Earth.

He had a partner dragon, and a soul mate, who had recently upgraded the rank of a contracted spirit.

What else?

There was the key to the spirit realm. He was also a vassal of the metal dragon Chief.

He was on good terms with the King of Water Mystical creatures and their kin, the Drakes, with a familiarity level of 100%, exchanging items with them.

What about the mystical creatures of the New Continent?

His fame in the New Continent Erika was overwhelmingly high, making him one of the ‘five most famous humans’ among the paleo NPCs.

Having just one of these achievements would be considered an incredible feat, yet Leeha had them all.

“That’s true.”

“Moreover, though you lament, your level has improved unimaginably. You know this yourself, don’t you?”

Level.

Smiling weakly at the NPCs’ term for discussing concepts of level, Leeha showed a resigned smile. It was certainly incomparable to the last time he had visited Browless. Moreover, wasn’t there a reward for the Third Wave?

“Ah, right. Character window!”

Name: Leeha / Race: Human

Profession: Musketeer / Level: 225 (97.8%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 135

HP: 7,970 (5,579)

MP: 2,325

Stats: Strength 609(+524)

Agility 3,579(+1,292)

Intelligence 366(+275)

Constitution 291(+198)

Mind 125(+115)

Remaining stat points: 35

“Right, I haven’t distributed my stats while dealing with the Chiyou and such. Sigh, I should at least invest in intelligence. Now intelligence will be over 400.”

Leeha, while looking at his character window and deciding on stats, wondered how his actions appeared to Browless.

Looking at Leeha, who was blankly staring into space, Browless wore a worried expression.

“Ease up, don’t try to shoulder all the burdens of Middle Earth by yourself. It might do you good to look around and delegate some responsibilities.”

“Yes, I understand.”

Leeha nodded, taking in Browless’ advice.

Possibly due to his intelligence surpassing 400 and the ‘Object Recognition’ effect becoming clearer, Browless couldn’t help but smile warmly at the sparkle in Leeha’s eyes.

“I believe you can overcome it. I will—”

Of course, reassuring words and a smile weren’t the only things that put Leeha at ease.

Browless stood up, not forgetting to add another word of encouragement to lift Leeha’s mystical creatures further.

“-be there for sure next time.”

The assault to prevent Ghibrid’s resurrection!

Browless’s determination to join the fight was indeed communicated to Leeha.

“By the way, why did the Rotzak prevent headmaster from coming?”

“There wasn’t any particular reason last time either. I think I have a rough idea of what that man is up to… But this time, he won’t be able to stop us. I plan to send a letter to His Majesty the King immediately.”

A light bulb went off in Leeha’s head as he listened to Browless. Rotzak must obey the King’s orders. The best way to go about it!

“Give me a moment—I will quickly make a trip to the Papacy.”

“Hm? What happened?”

“Ha, haha, I’m not quite sure myself. I just tend to think clearly in these situations.”

If it were up to Rotzak, he could crumple Browless’s letter. But if it’s a direct request from the Papacy!?

“See, you can do anything if you put your mind to it.”

“Moreover, thanks to the advice from the headmaster, I got another idea.

‘Look around you.’

Truly a great piece of advice.”

Browless may not have known what Leeha was thinking, but decided to trust his disciple.

Filled with anticipation, Leeha looked towards Blaugrunn.

“Hehe, Blaugrunn-ssi? You do have polymorph magic, right?”

“Could it be… Leeha-ssi.”

Just like that!

Realizing what Leeha meant, Blaugrunn couldn’t help but express his awkwardness.

After rushing to the Papacy to request the dispatching of Admiral Browless to the New Continent without fail, Leeha immediately proceeded with Blaugrunn to an empty lot near the City of Gazia.

“Ah, really! Why must you do this!”

“Because it can’t be anyone but you, Blaugrunn-ssi! Besides, it’s not a Black Bass either! Would you die from a musket shot or two?”

“Die? Barri… My barrier wouldn’t last a few shots, and a direct hit could be fatal!”

“You won’t die, you won’t die. There’s no need to worry at all since we don’t have any bullets made from dragon hearts.”

Despite their squabbling, Leeha had already loaded his Kentucky musket.

(To be continued…)
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Blaugrunn sighed and trudged away from Leeha.

“Come on, come on! Transform already! Into Toon!”

Indeed, why bear the burdens of the heart alone in silence?

‘It’s definitely the headmaster. Just need to utilize what’s around me!’

If Browless had heard, he would have protested that it wasn’t what he meant, but by then, Leeha’s switch had already been flipped on.

“Transforming will be hard enough without having to roar like Toon-”

“Ah, forget about the roaring. Just transform, quickly!”

Blaugrunn grumbled inwardly about the requester’s attitude but didn’t forget to cast the spell.

In a flicker of turquoise light, standing before Leeha was not the human form of a bronze dragon.

A 44 meter tall dinosaur with blue Scales for a left arm and second-in-command.

‘Toon…!’

Toon was there.

If low-level users passing by had seen, they would have been terrified, possibly collapsing to the ground.

“Woahhhhhh———!”

Toon released a long cry. However, compared to the roars heard during the conquest of demonic bases or enemy waves, it felt somewhat lacking.

“Hm, seems a bit off?”

“Roarrrr— cough, cough! Of course! As I’ve said earlier, polymorph is about changing the appearance! I can manage a decent imitation of the voice, but not the power within.”

Leeha pondered aloud, to which Toon, mid-roar, coughed embarrassingly.

It couldn’t be helped. What was visible was the form of Toon, but the essence was Blaugrunn.


“Ew! It’s weird! The voice sounds different from Toon’s too!”

“Ah! What does that matter! Leeha-nim only wanted Toon’s form in the first place!”

“Well, still. The atmosphere should be more intimidating. I’d get scared again—or rather, saying I’d get scared isn’t quite right… Anyway, the atmosphere needs to be right for me to properly conduct the test.”

Leeha teased Blaugrunn, who had transformed into Toon.

Deliberately deepening his voice to mimic Toon, Blaugrunn’s cheeks turned red.

Of course, in the form of Toon!

A dinosaur of 44 meters tall blushing would probably have more of an effect than any mental attack spell.

“Anyway, just get on with it. I’ll be here, casting barriers and going ‘koo-wooo’.”

“Okay. Wait for it.”

Leeha quickly put some distance between them and Toon.

Using a Kentucky Musket but combining it with the Snipe skill allowed for engaging from a distance of 400 meters to be effective. Especially when fighting an oversized monster like Toon, being at close range would actually be a disadvantage.

‘Close-range dealers might have it easy since they can hit Toon anywhere, but for someone like me—’

Preferring to aim for one-hit kills, a musketeer found it challenging to be up close with large monsters.

With the Black Bass and its multi-warhead capability, Leeha would have been firing recklessly, but at the moment, black Bass was with Bottleneck.

Holding the musket, adopting its battle method was only natural.

“Alright, alright. I can do this.”

Leeha didn’t look back and finished loading the Kentucky Musket. The distance was about 400 meters.

“The Stabilizer?—No. Yes!”

Thinking of making it more comfortable to shoot from a standing position, Leeha recalled the support gadget, the Stabilizer, crafted sometime back. But then, the idea of Jellypong came to mind. It could extend infinitely and harden to any degree desired.

“Jellypong! Can you support this?”


『Dong dong!』

Whoosh-!

Jellypong’s arm supported the bottom of the Kentucky Musket, effectively acting as an excellent shooting stand.

Leeha gave a thumbs up and aimed at Toon in the distance.

“Hoohoo… Snipe.”

Whoosh—!

The barrel of the Kentucky Musket gleamed. Leeha aimed the muzzle at Toon’s head. Despite being 400 meters away, aiming for the head of the tall Toon required the muzzle’s angle to be raised significantly.

Blaugrunn: Leeha-nim, ready to proceed.

Leeha: Okay.

‘Huff, huff.”

The aim was perfect. There was no influence from the direction or speed of the wind. All that was left was to pull the trigger.

‘Damn, that’s not even Toon. It’s a Blaugrunn.’

Back when jests were made before creating distance, Leeha had his concerns. Would it be possible to practice sniping using the light and skittish Toon as targets?

But that wasn’t the case.

『Myongmyong…?』

Jellypong felt a warm vibration in his arm.

Since the safety mechanism was in play, Jellypong did his best to steady the barrel, absorbing the vibration entirely.

Naturally, it wasn’t due to any trembling of the ground.

Trembling slightly, Leeha, holding the Kentucky musket in a shooting stance, stood ready.

‘Damn, damn…


Kwooooar

The Blaugrunn let out a heavy roar.

Leeha’s index finger on the trigger had hardened like a stone.

‘Even though I’m not looking through the scope, I can’t shoot? Even knowing that’s not Toon!’

In other words, there was an intention to attack Toon.

That’s what made pulling the trigger impossible. Without using a scope, whenever Toon entered his sight during the Third Wave or otherwise, sniping other monsters was perfectly feasible.

But now?

Not being able to shoot Toon even without the scope could only mean one thing.

Fear of Toon.

A mental block or whatever it was, the moment the thought of attacking Toon formed, it became impossible to pull the trigger.

‘Am I freezing up against this damn dinosaur? After all that hellish training I endured!’

Leeha bit his lip hard.

If he had his character window open, it would show about 1 HP worth of self-inflicted damage. The stinging pain was enough for the taste of coppery blood to sizzle through, yet his finger still refused to move.

‘Please, come on!’

Even shifting his stance deliberately and looking around didn’t help.

Trying to fire suddenly after moving a few steps didn’t improve the situation either.

5 minutes, 10 minutes, 15 minutes, 20 minutes.

The gunpowder firmly packed into the Kentucky musket failed to ignite. Eventually, Leeha lowered the barrel.

“Leeha-nim…”

“Ahhh, haha. I’m just not in good shape today. Shall we call it a day for now? How about a retry next time?”

Leeha felt relieved that he was over 400m away from the Blaugrunn.

Thankfully, expressions don’t show in whispers.

‘Damn…

What can I do in this situation going forward?

About to log out, Leeha suddenly decided to use the modification sphere instead. Although he couldn’t snipe, he couldn’t just run away through logging out.

If he simply let time slip by in reality, the three days given by the Vatican would pass in the blink of an eye, and he couldn’t face that day without solving his own issues.

“Where should I go…

The Castle Dale of Ramhwa Yeon and Ram Hwajung? The royal palace of Fibiel where Shin Nara resides? Or the office in Gaza City?

‘No, the place I should go now is…’ Even though I couldn’t learn any skills, there has to be a place where I can take away something by being there.”

Leeha decided to return to the Musket Academy.

“Oh? Kidd?”

“Leeha…? What brings you here?”

“What do you mean! It’s not strange for me to be here, right?”

“It doesn’t seem right for someone who usually doesn’t show their face to say such a thing.”

Kidd snorted and headed into the entrance of the academy.

Meeting one-on-one after a long time was somewhat pleasant for Leeha, but Kidd’s cold attitude quickly dampened the mood.

“Tch, always has to say it like that. Anyhow-”

Taang—

“Whoa, nice sound. Hmm?”

Leeha, about to enter the academy building, paused to look at the drill field. It was a familiar sight. After spending four hours conversing with Browless, stopping by the Vatican, and transforming Blaugrunn into Toon to overcome his “sniping phobia”, the time had flown by.

“Still here? Not doing any quests?”

In the dimming grounds of the academy, a Miyaw race player was practicing alone with a musket.

There was a possibility it wasn’t the same player seen earlier in the day, but it seemed unlikely many would choose the rare combination of being a Miyaw musketeer, not enough to meet several in a day.

“Ah, those were the days. Just shooting away, hunting a few bats, it was simple. Peace of mind- no, it wasn’t really peaceful.”

Recalling those low-level days, he shook his head at the struggle to obtain expensive items like gunpowder or steel balls.

Your heart might have been at ease, but physically, it was anything but comfortable.

“Oh, Kidd! Did you ever go through something like that?”

“What are you talking about?”

After stealing a glance at the Miyaw musketeer, he quickly caught up with Kidd walking ahead.

He had not gotten more than NPC-level advice from Browless, but perhaps Kidd would be different.

“It’s… um, how do I put this.”

When you couldn’t shoot at your target.

Whether it’s a syndrome, a mental block, or a slump.

Any term would do to describe those times when your body wouldn’t respond, regardless of your will.

That was what he wanted to discuss.

“To put it bluntly, when Gaza City installed an ‘Enhancement-Only Forge’ and didn’t say a word to me, are you talking about times like that?”

“Eh? Wha?!”

Kidd’s retort was unexpectedly sharp.

“…Do you think I wouldn’t know? I go there daily for ammo supplies. Even a goldfish wouldn’t think that.”

“No, I didn’t think you wouldn’t know but- Ah! So that’s why you’re upset?! I wondered why you were being cold!”

It was a rare chance for a one-on-one talk, and Kidd couldn’t possibly dislike it!

Despite the grumbling demeanor, it was clear Kidd had a certain fondness for him.

Understanding this, he clapped his hands in realization, but it only seemed to irritate Kidd further.

“Not. At. All.”

“Wait, just a minute! Hey, what’s gotten into Kidd-nim again. You don’t think I’d stop you from using it because we’re both Musketeers, do you?”

“I’ve already been told that unless it’s a VIP specified by the lord, it’s not allowed.”

“Eh? You spoke to Bottleneck about it, not just saw it!”

Kidd cleared his throat, embarrassed.

When he first used the “Magma Eruption” skill to enhance the Wand of Ram Hwajung, he had made it clear to Bottleneck.

No enhancement requests should be accepted from anyone but his designated users.

“Heh, Bottleneck mentioned something about the Musketeers, so I thought maybe but- you actually went to him!”

“I did.”

“-I didn’t know- What?”

“…The analysis is complete. It’s just that the timing hasn’t been right for the enhancement.”

“You had it analyzed!? By whom? When!”

Clearly, Bottleneck wasn’t one to simply follow orders.

At least when it came to matters concerning the Musketeers, his requests were like a free pass from the NPC.

He looked at Kidd with astonishment.

Though he was a bit annoyed remembering Bottleneck’s stained beard, it was hardly something to be upset about.

A friendly competitor and rival of Middle Earth.

There was no reason to hinder Kidd and Luger’s progress.

‘Anyway, I would’ve let them eventually… Darn, I wanted to see you struggle without the enhancements!’

He was only disappointed for losing the chance to tease Kidd a bit more.
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“So, the reason for being upset is-”

“Who said I was upset! Ahem, I mean, that’s just how it is.”

In short, the reason Kidd* was sulking was simple. There had been no consultation or hint given to him! He was upset because he wasn’t informed, not because he couldn’t use the special forge for enhancement.

“I’ve been really busy, you know. Please understand. And I haven’t even enhanced anything yet either! Kidd, you and I shouldn’t be bickering. It’s Luger who should be blamed for completely leaving out the concept of enhancement and wiping his mouth clean. Don’t you agree?”

“Indeed, I am…”

disappointed in him.

Kidd had heard the story from Bottleneck.

Knowing what went on behind the scenes with enhancements, especially what happened at the bonobo paleo side, was only natural.

Starting from Luger being the first to receive enhancements.

“So… what are you curious about? The ‘time’ you mentioned earlier?”

When Kidd nodded, Leeha smiled.

His rhetorical skills quickly redirected Kidd’s frustration towards Luger! It seemed Leeha’s strange techniques(?) had only grown while playing Middle Earth.

Leeha sighed and shook his head.

Kidd, feeling the atmosphere becoming heavier, pressed down on his hat and looked at Leeha.

Leeha’s lips twitched.

He wouldn’t mention it to another user. It would be difficult to gain sympathy, let alone there being a need to say it.

“I can’t snipe.”

But the person in front of him was different; Kidd was one of the Musketeers. How many in Middle Earth could share tales related to firearms?

“Can’t snipe?”


Kidd’s eyes widened.

“What do you mean? Even during the Third Wave, you were rampant.”

“No, I’m fine in general situations… But when I think of a certain person, I can’t shoot. My fingers just won’t move.”

Leeha started to delve into a deeper story than what he had told Browless.

They weren’t at the academy. They were sitting on a bench next to the academy’s training ground.

“Daemon… Since the campaign at the source of the demon, you’ve had these symptoms?”

“I’m not sure when it started- no, actually, that’s probably right.”

There was no need to hide or find a reason. Leeha was certain the symptoms started after failing to snipe Toon.

“I thought it was strange when I heard about it from the Vatican.”

“Oh? What do you mean?”

“If it were you, you’d have shattered five jars in less than 2 seconds. Why did you fail?”

It was because Toon was there. Kidd didn’t feel the need to add that explicitly.

It wasn’t simply because Toon was present, but rather because the scope’s magnification was increased to avoid Toon, which slowed down the movement of the gun barrel. Regardless, Kidd’s statement wasn’t wrong.

In the end, the entire situation had arisen because of Toon.

“You’ve never had something like this happen?”

“Why wouldn’t I have?”

“When? When did it happen to you?”

Kidd had already taken out and was spinning the Crimson Geckos.

His skilled movements appeared almost like magic. It wasn’t simply because he was familiar with using the weapon in Middle Earth.

“You know I’m from Texas, right?”


“Oh, yeah. I think you mentioned it once. Luger is German, and you’re American. By the way, Kidd, what do you do in real life?”

“My home state of Texas is a place where an annual gun show is held. It’s a place where everyone loves firearms… Working with guns was a very natural occurrence in our region.”

Kidd spun his Crimson Geckos around as he unfolded his story.

Hearing stories from reality in Middle Earth was quite fascinating to Leeha.

“Even you, Kidd?”

“Of course. By day, I would attend to a small gun shop, but by night, I traveled around Texas as a trick shooter before my father passed away and before Middle Earth was released.”

“Trick shooter? Is that like a circus?”

At the mention of the word ‘circus’, Kidd momentarily lifted his hat brim. His gaze towards Leeha sparkled but was soon followed by a sigh.

“Well, trick shooting is a profession that’s disappearing in America, no, even in Texas. It’s natural that you, being Korean from a country where guns are not allowed, would find it hard to understand.”

Had Leeha been American, or even Texan, perhaps Kidd would have thrown a punch.

Leeha thought Kidd’s intense gaze was splendid.

He knew that such a gaze could only come from someone with firm pride in their profession.

“Trick shooting is not simply a circus act. It involves romance, the smell of gunpowder, and surpassing the physical and mental limits of humanity. For example-”

Suddenly, Kidd rose from his seat. The next thing Leeha saw was Kidd firing three shots from the Crimson Geckos he had been spinning on his fingertips, each bullet precisely piercing through falling leaves.

The six leaves that had fallen to the ground each had a hole right through their center.

‘Incredible… he’s gotten faster.’

Was it because she fine-tuned her dynamic vision and adjusted other specific stats slightly? It must not have been just that; Kidd’s skills surely weren’t stagnant either.

“-like this. I can do this in reality too.”

“Do it like this? Insane, how is this rapid movement even possible-”

“It’s not fast. The Crimson Geckos are special, but in the end, they are revolvers. I’ve been playing with them since I was two.”


Woosh___

Kidd blew the gunpowder smoke from the barrel lightly and holstered the gun.

Sitting back on the bench, he glanced at Leeha with tensed neck muscles.

Leeha found himself compelled to react as Kidd expected. Gaping at him for a long while, Leeha then nodded.

“Indeed… now that I think about it, you were the first to clear the rapid-fire quest thanks to your modification of a musket into a handgun shape. How did you come up with an idea that not even soldiers would easily think of… working in a gun shop and playing with guns since two makes sense. Even the best gamers, without an understanding of firearms, wouldn’t easily achieve what you did, but I’m beginning to understand a bit more about how you managed to do it so effortlessly.”

“Let’s return to an earlier question… I too had them. Although slightly different from your current situation. There was a time I couldn’t even touch a gun, let alone shoot it.”

“What happened…” Kidd’s voice was somber. Leeha asked cautiously, but Kidd didn’t answer. For a moment, he seemed to reminisce before simply shaking his head.

Silence flowed between the two.

Kidd remained silent without saying anything further. Leeha spent the time guessing what Kidd might have been thinking or what he might have experienced.

Though she wanted to press him as much as the silence prolonged, Leeha said nothing. Compared to the usually intrusive Luther, Kidd was much more amiable and intelligent. After all, it was natural for anyone to have their own pains.

It took about 10 minutes of silence before Kidd finally spoke up.

“The important thing is returning to the starting point.”

“The starting point?”

“Yes. Your starting point. Going back to what originally unlocked your thought process. If you can’t do that, you will never be able to shoot ever again.”

Kidd looked straight into Leeha’s eyes.

His gaze conveyed that this was all he could say.

“The starting point, huh… I see.”

“In 3 days, no, in just over two days and a few hours, you must lead the way to find the 『Divine Staff』.”

“I know.”

So, solve your problem by then. Leeha remembered the words Kidd had swallowed and smiled.”

Huh, then.”

Kidd stood up and just like that, entered into the academy. This was a moment Leeha had considered trying to strike up a conversation with Browless again, but chasing after him when they had established such a parting atmosphere seemed extremely awkward.

“Man, feels like I’ve been sucker-punched.”

The sun had already set in the world of Middle Earth.

“Well, there are issues with getting back to square one… After a new day dawns, we only have two days left, according to Middle Earth time, to secure the Divine Staff. That’s less than 10 hours in real-world time.”

Leeha envisioned the ‘square one’ person Kidd had mentioned.

“Within nine hours… Hmm, is it possible? It’s been years since I’ve contacted them… Well, even if I do meet them, I’m not sure what could be done in just nine hours…”

Leeha scratched his head vigorously and stood up. When it came to sniping-related issues, there was only one person who could be his point of origin.

“I just hope Sergeant Kim hasn’t changed his phone number.”

Stretching, Leeha prepared to log out.

Bang! A gunshot sounded in the training field, which had been quiet while Leeha and Kidd were talking.

“Did someone pay attention to us, huh? Well, it’s possible they recognized both Kidd and me.”

It wasn’t possible for an experienced musketeer, or someone even slightly interested in the internet community or various news of Middle Earth, to not recognize the most famous musketeers in Middle Earth.

Indeed, looking at a user who had been there since morning made Leeha feel the reality of his popularity – it was a Miyaw musketeer.

“Muskets are fun at first… didn’t bother with quests, huh? Or maybe they’re grinding? But then, they shouldn’t have stopped while Kidd and I were talking.”

The silhouette from afar belonged to the Miyaw race, their ears perky, perhaps slightly shorter than Leeha. Though their face was blurred from the distance, Leeha didn’t pay much attention.

“Forget it! Let’s move on! I should make that call. If the number’s no good, maybe it’s time to see Lieutenant Kijung, get some fresh air, and visit the unit.”

Despite the tight schedule, Leeha knew better than to rush. Relaxed yet certain to keep track of time, Leeha logged out of Middle Earth.

Just then, another gunshot rang out.

Swish!

“Eh?”

“A large group is arriving, it seems.”

Shin Nara frowned while Syndergard’s expression turned grave.

The spectacle was so intense that it was visible even from the Sacred City’s dispatch office in Juma City, a vibrant glow of warp gates signaling that at least a hundred people were using them simultaneously.

“If such a group is arriving at this time…”

Shin Nara pondered briefly. She wasn’t entirely without clues, having heard stories about Leeha from the Vatican.

“They’ve arrived! They’re already here!”

An NPC messenger from the Fibiel Alliance Knight Order ran in shouting. Not only the Sacred Knight Order but the entire alliance, including a small team of magic fighters, came out to the training field to see.

“Who? Who has arrived?”

“Minis! Minis have already sent their troops!”

“Already? How quickly has word of our actions spread?”

“No, it’s not because of our actions.”

“Does Dame Shin know something about this?”

Syndergard asked Nara. Since the only person who had been to the Vatican yesterday and is also a ‘user’ was Sacred Knight Nara. The other NPCs of Sacred Knight Order didn’t have a chance to be informed, so they were still in the dark.
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“Yes, there was a discussion at the Vatican yesterday. By the order of His Holiness the Pope, requests for troop deployment were likely sent to Minis, Kraven, and Shazrashian.”

“…Even so, that’s incredibly fast. To think that troops would be dispatched today in response to a letter sent only yesterday—that’s not as simple as it sounds-”

Woaaaahhhhh!———

The cheers of people cut through Syndergard’s words, carried by the wind. Likely, the users from the nation of Minis were shouting out in anticipation of the advantages they could gain from the NPCs. Understanding their feelings all too well, the expressions of the NPCs aligned with Fibiel darkened even further.

‘From a broader national perspective, their swift deployment would indeed be beneficial. However…’

As long as the confrontation between the Human Alliance and the Demon Army continues, there would be no cause for concern.

Yet, with no knowing when they would arrive, human nature will inevitably lead us down a political path.

‘Nothing good comes from the strong gathering on a narrow land.’

What could the NPCs sent by the command of their sovereigns be thinking?

In the jointly managed city of Juma, small and large disputes were already a daily occurrence.

Not just among the knight orders but even among simple shop NPCs, squabbles and fights break out over rights and positions.

And now?

Imagine what would happen when the most honorable and prideful knight orders from various countries gather here.

‘No, don’t think negatively. There are users affiliated with the knight orders on the other side as well. If users can harmonize well with one another, then…’

Shin Nara was aware.

Being a user affiliated solely with Fibiel’s Sacred Knight Order and the first user to become a member of an NPC knight order, these were stories from the early days of Middle Earth.

As it stands, a significant number of users have joined the general knight orders within Fibiel. It was well-known that Minis and Kraven also had such users.

If the users affiliated with knight orders could manage their respective knight orders appropriately, there shouldn’t be any major issues.

“Huwaaaaa… So, this is the New Continent!”


“Oh my, it’s tough, so tough. While everyone else is here power leveling, ultra-leveling, and turbo-leveling, we’re stuck with the same ol’ hard labor, constant hard laborー”

While Nara entertained these thoughts, nearby the warp gate, amidst the commotion, a few users were exploring this new world.

“Keh keh keh, and to think. Hoped to benefit from joining a knight order and ended up stepping in crap.”

“Always stuck patrolling or playing lapdog to the king. How are we supposed to level up with these repetitive quests? Need to have a blast in the big waters at least once!”

“Yeah, yeah. Let’s find our headquarters first. Then, should we start by greeting the mystical creatures or whatever Palleson creatures are around here?”

“Right. There are affinity achievements and whatnot… Since we’re late, we have to catch up quickly.”

The users fluttered their capes embroidered with unicorn-like horse heads, getting ready to equip themselves.

A few users aligned with Minis stopped cheering and pointed at them.

“Woah! By God! They have a unicorn emblem! They said they’d send a few knight orders!”

“『Berthul Knight Order』, as expected! Fibiel sent their Capital Defense Knight Order too, but we’re also sending ours!”

The Capital Defense Knight Order of Minis, berthul Knight Order, which had shown itself only once during the ultimate clash of the national war and then vanished, had finally set foot upon the New Continent of Erika.

“Hmm…, the number seems unchanged.”

Leeha listened to the trot rhythm coming from the other end of the phone, recognizing the number as that of Lieutenant Kim by the unchanged ringback tone.

But that was it; the other side remained silent.

“Busy maybe? Well, if they went to the deployment and are still serving as a platoon leader… Judging by the sore shoulders, looks like they’re in the midst of managing troops.”

It was 10:30 AM.

Leeha still remembered the daily schedule from sniper training. Not so much remembered by mind as by body.

“Maybe I’ll leave a message?”

Expressing a wish to meet at least once today might prompt them to make some time in the evening.

Time was not something Leeha had in abundance. Tonight, I must become a guide towards the ‘Divine Staff’ in Middle Earth. I could easily fulfill the role of a guide by explaining the location to Fernand, but I chose not to.


“That’s something you should only resort to when absolutely necessary.”

It’s important to earn points even in these minor instances. From my perspective, having adapted to Middle Earth, it’s exactly these trivial matters that are of utmost importance. Gathering such instances creates a butterfly effect, and I believe it’s these moments that unleash great power during critical times in Middle Earth. In other words, there’s no need to concede opportunities to make a mark safely.

“I used to not believe in this…, but psychological factors really do play a significant role, don’t they?”

While contacting Sergeant Kim, I also searched the internet for treatments for my symptoms. Generally, PTSD is treated with a combination of professional counseling and medication.

“But, can my case be considered PTSD? It seems more like an obsessive-compulsive disorder or phobias like acrophobia or claustrophobia… The trigger for my phobia is ‘when trying to attack Toon.’

The closest thing I can associate my feelings with is not PTSD but a phobia, perhaps something like coulrophobia or xenophobia, especially when encountering certain creatures or seeing specific disguised figures.”

‘There are many such phobias around the world. In the USA, there are syndromes where people get seizures upon seeing someone in clown makeup, and xenophobia is something I also find creepy and frightening at times. Hmm… But usually, those considered patients… aren’t kids, right?’

Coulrophobia, commonly found among children and adolescents, bears similarities to my fear towards Toon, yet there are significant differences. My fear isn’t solely about facing Toon. It’s also the anxiety and concern about what happens next, like the fear of retaliation for a failed attack.

In other words, it isn’t entirely based on instinct.

“Son, have you had lunch?”

“No, I’m not hungry yet.”

“You should eat anyway. Come and eat!”

Mother’s call from the kitchen made me laugh. If she’s inviting me to eat just to feed me, asking my preference seems pointless. It seems I’ve truly inherited my personality from my mother.

“By the way, mom, aren’t you going out today? I thought you’d be busy right before the opening.”

“They said there’s no need to come today for any material deadline or sanitization work. Apparently, even if I go, I won’t be able to enter the shop.”

“Oh, is that so? Then tomorrow- ah, that works out well.”

“Huh? What does?”

As she scooped up soup with her spoon, I handed my phone to her. If someone could look at my phone, there’s no need for me to wait outside, right?

“Do you remember the platoon leader I had during my training? Sniper platoon leader, captain Kim.”

“Ah, yes, I remember. I got shivers just from seeing his face when I went for your visitation.”


“Heh, if that scary person contacts me, could you wake me up?”

Mom looked at me with wide eyes. Why am I getting in touch with people from that time again? Though a puzzled expression crossed her face, she didn’t ask further. For her, the military was equivalent to ‘the place that took away my legs’, so her reaction was understandable.

“Alright.”

“Okay! Then I-”

“You have to finish the soup too!”

“Am I a child? I know when I’m full-”

“Shush!”

 At my mother’s shushing sound, I had no more words. Swiftly, I got up and gulped down the soup from my bowl. What does the age of a child matter, after all?No matter what, in his mother’s eyes, he would always appear young.

Enjoying the small joys of family life, which he hadn’t felt in a while, he logged back into Middle Earth.

Before he knew it, it was past 1 PM. Since the last time he logged out, almost a day and a half had passed in Middle Earth.

“Welcome back, Leeha.”

“Hey, everything’s been okay? No problems?”

As soon as Leeha logged in, Blaugrunn used a summoning spell to come to his side.

Leeha stroked Blaugrunn’s hair as he asked.

In the past, Blaugrunn might have smacked his arm away, but now she seemed to have gotten used to his touch.

“It’s only been a day, what could possibly happen? Oh! There is one thing. I did contact the Silver Dragon clan. When I talked about the frozen ostrich eggs, they were dying to see them.”

“Good! Then let’s go quick-”

“Myong, myongong…”

“-Huh? Oh, no. Don’t worry. Even if they want to dissect you, I won’t let it happen.”

Leeha immediately picked up on Jellypong’s worries.

This was thanks to remembering the interest the Silver Dragons had shown in Jellypong when they escaped from the clutches of the black dragon Onyx.

It seemed Jellypong remembered it too, worried it might come to harm.

“Blaugrunn, can we go right away?”

“If you’re with Leeha, they might even summon us there.”

“So they’re really that eager, huh? Heh, dragons might be smart but they know nothing about negotiation. Showing their eagerness like that-”

-Myong! Myong!

-Hm? Kijung? What’s up?

-Where have you been! Come to Juma City quick!

Leeha, who had been gleefully thinking about plundering (more like?) items, was startled by Kijung’s words resonating in his head.

The urgency in his tone was palpable even in the whisper.

-What’s wrong?

-Minis and Kraven…! No, it’s complicated, just come. Come and we’ll talk. Shin Nara is having a really tough time right now!

Though the explanation wasn’t thorough, it was enough to grasp the situation.

‘Minis, Kraven, Nara-ssi… The Knights?’

Did that mean a conflict had erupted in Juma City?

He couldn’t know for sure.

Leeha felt a bit reluctant to leave the heavy sensation he carried on his shoulders.

If there was a need for forceful resolution, having Black Bass would have made things easier. The Kentucky Musket was enough for regular hunting, but it would be challenging against the adventurers of the New Continent.

“Still, I ought to go see. Blaugrunn, let’s put off the Silver Dragon matter for later.”

“Eh? Well, alright. As you wish, Leeha.”

“Ah~ Now you even think about these things~”

“What, what do you mean! Of course, I should, I’m a dragon!”

“Ha, got it, got it. Anyway. Blaugrunn, you should rest a bit in your lair. I’m going to check out the New Continent.”

Leeha activated the teleportation crystal, sending Blaugrunn back.

Shortly thereafter, Leeha arrived in Juma City.

“Oh, it’s crowded here. Has it always been this bustling in just a day?”

That was Leeha’s first impression.

Juma City was now far more crowded than usual, with knight orders from four countries and their NPC aides all dispatched here.

The fluttering banners of the knight orders, the NPCs of the knight orders walking around in completely unified attire…

‘Wow! Looks like there’s even more people than during the wave event?’

(To be continued…)
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The city, which used to be so tranquil without the Wave to the point of awkwardness, transformed unbelievably within a single day.

“See, this is what I’m talking about. Why don’t those who can, do this all the time? It would be great if they were dispatched earlier to block the Waves together.”

Leeha laughed as he strolled through the streets. He thought that finding the loudest place would lead him to where conflicts were happening, but surprisingly, most of the streets were crowded, making it hard to pinpoint exactly. As he walked, memorizing the changed buildings and locations, he eventually sent a whisper to Kijung.

Leeha: Kijung? Where are you? Should I head to somewhere like the Sacred Knight’s office? Kijung: Eh? Why go there, just Chain Call me. It’s the Red Goat paleo Tribe, hurry!

Leeha: Red Goat? Got it.

Though confused, Leeha didn’t ask further and activated his crystal ball. The tribe of the Red Goats was a saved point, so it wasn’t difficult. When his body teleported with a flash of lavender light, Leeha could sense Kijung’s urgency.

“…What’s going on?”

“Leeha!”

“Hyung!”

“Where have you been?”

Not only Kijung and Nara, but also the members of the Sacred Knights Order, senior members from the Stars, and those from the paleo tribe who had already transformed into Red Goats, were growling towards the exterior, weapons drawn in aggression.

“It’s been a while, eldest hyung Youngblood.”

“Leeha…”

“Luckily you’ve arrived. Let’s save the joy of reunion for later. Now is not the time.”

“Hmm, seems like it. But…”

Loading his Kentucky Musket quickly, Leeha gestured towards the people outside the Red Goat tribe with his chin.

“Who are they? They don’t look like friends, that’s for sure.”

Youngblood, looking in the direction Leeha had nodded, replied with a gulp, “…Our mistake to think all humans were like you.”

“What’s that supposed to-”


“Hyung! These bastards came here to loot!”

Kijung cut off Leeha. To loot? The paleo tribe? A place guarded by beings close to dragons, each tribe?

As Leeha looked confused, one of the people from outside stepped forward, waving his hand.

“You’re Leeha? Nice to meet you! We’re from Minis’s Virtuous Knight Order! We wanted to greet you during the national war, but it ended so unfortunately.”

Leeha had no idea who he was. Naturally, he couldn’t recall what role Minis’s Virtuous Knight Order had played or even grasp exactly what it meant that they were here to loot the paleo tribe.

“But one thing’s for sure-”

This pretentious man was clearly not on his side.

“-What are you?”

Even as Leeha’s voice turned aggressive, the man from the Virtuous Knight Order still had a relaxed expression, appearing utterly baffled by the question.

“Whatever do you mean? We’re just here to achieve some deeds. I mean, Fibiel took everything before we even got here—nothing left for us. So, we came to greet you, coincidentally. Talking about looting and whatnot… that’ll make our knights upset, wouldn’t it?”

As he shrugged, another person stepped forward.

“That’s right, that’s right! We even came here with a letter from the papacy! Is it so distasteful to want to boost our stats before facing a common enemy? If it were me, I’d be leading the way in showing which tribe’s achievements to target. Isn’t that a win-win?”

Leeha could tell this wasn’t their first rodeo. However, the idea that Minis’s Knight Order would act like street thugs was utterly preposterous.

‘Compared to the Sacred Knights, these guys are…’With disciplined movements and strict regulations, the pride of Sacred Knights!

Compared to the Sacred Knights, they seemed no different than a band of thieves.

Of course, he had no intention of getting offended by such remarks, nor did he have the desire to educate them.

“If all you were after were achievements, the Byulcho or Sacred Knights wouldn’t have bothered coming here. What exactly were you thinking?”

His voice was calm and composed.

The musket he calmly raised was already aiming at the knight at the forefront.

Before the joint operation of the four nations to find the Divine Staff even started, the first conflict had arisen.


“Didn’t I just say it’s about achievements? The Papacy called us on urgent dispatch, pushing us into a corner. We came bearing aid even for the savage NPCs, along with relief supplies.”

“Relief supplies? Seriously!”

Kijung exclaimed.

“A knight of the order, and a user at that, not ashamed to say such things? Unless set as beggars, NPCs capable of self-sustenance—”

“Hey.”

A user from the Virtue Knights cut off Kijung, nodding his head, prompting the knights standing behind to make way.

Hidden from view by the knights, there were indeed wagons loaded with supplies.

The wagons, not just one or two, were piled high with boxes containing food and various items.

“Don’t you know? It’s the easiest way to increase affinity—throw quantity at them. And it’s much quicker to raise it on behalf of our nation, our organization, rather than individually.”

He had a point.

But as everyone needed to gain affinity, the quantity dumped increased significantly.

Eventually, considering ‘cost-effectiveness’, it would make more sense for individuals to work on their affinity and achievements.

Under normal circumstances, that is.

The user smirked at Leeha who was deep in thought, and spoke up again.

“I can’t imagine you didn’t understand… Great. Maybe you could clear up the misunderstandings some have about us. With Leeha-nim’s reputation, it should be easy, right?”

Given the urgency, the nation had supported them with relief supplies to be used all at once, offering a near-effortless and quick way for individuals to gain achievements.

Naturally, this displeased other users.

Thus, the Virtue Knights’ user was implying that the other nations and the Sacred Knights of Starfall and Shin Nara were ‘jealous’, hence the interference.

It was almost akin to crafty framing.

“No. I have no reason to persuade them, and above all, I too want to misunderstand you. What I heard was ‘plunder.’


What does that mean?”

Leeha asked, still with a calm tone.

They had no intention to respond, so it was Shin Nara who answered.

“This isn’t a donation. They demanded land from the paleos in exchange for the resources they provided.”

“Land?”

Leeha glared, prompting the Virtue Knights’ user to shrug again.

“The New Continent is overflowing with land. We just thought it’d be nice to have a place near this forest for our training grounds and barracks. Are we to be accused of ‘plunder’ for that, putting us in a bad mood! Really, do you think we could all reside in Juma City? In that cramped city? As if the knights from four nations could live there, all snug and cozy?”

While their justification seemed sound, it was undoubtedly an unacceptable condition.

That very condition was what Leeha had worried about since setting foot on the New Continent for the first time.

“If the Knights of Minis start this…

Other nations won’t stay silent.

Even Fibiel, Leeha’s homeland, might issue a royal command. Then, naturally, Shin Nara of the Sacred Knights would have no choice but to comply.

Above all, indiscriminate territorial expansion inevitably leads to war.

Having studied this in the military, Leeha couldn’t take their words at face value, knowing their intentions weren’t pure. Leeha pulled the trigger.

Click! As a light friction sound was heard, the face of a Virtuous Knight Order user turned fierce.

“You have no authority, Leeha. You know that, right? Yet, we ‘respect’ you. Leeha, one of the users with the highest reputation in the New Continent, and Shin Nara, the first user to join a knight order among users. We simply don’t want to be on bad terms with you, nor do we wish to cause friction here.”

“Seems like you’re not aware that you’re already causing it. And I may not have authority, but what do you think will happen if this gets to the papacy?”

His demeanor was as fierce as his face. The entire Virtuous Knight Order was ready for battle in an instant, which alone was enough to gauge their strength.

Kijug: Hyung-ah, are they serious? Leeha: Fibiel’s Sacred, minis’s Virtue. Equal rank, equal status. Selected purely based on skill. He regretted asking, but it was too late. The muzzle of the Kentucky Musket was already aimed precisely at the forehead of the knight in front.

‘So it’s selection based on skill, huh? That’s why assholes and robbers like him can get in?’

Yet no one stopped such talk. It occurred to him that this rude person might hold the highest position among the Virtue Knights present.

‘But he’s not a tank anyway. He can’t dodge my shot.’

In the worst-case scenario, shoot to kill immediately and subdue the Virtitude Knight Order. If a mediation request is sent to the papacy afterwards, it could be resolved without further issues. After all, they were the ones looking for trouble.

Leeha exchanged glances with him. Although the words were aggressive, there was logic, reason, and status behind them. Such a user would not be easy to handle.

‘Their stance, their proficiency in combat… Could it be similar to the Sacred, possibly even the Capital Defense Knights?’

It was surprising how familiar they seemed with war and skirmishes.

For a moment, it felt like facing a wild beast.

‘But he’s not a beast. No, even if he is, it doesn’t matter. You’re not Toon.’

Therefore, I can shoot.

Leeha felt no hesitation after sorting out his thoughts. It seemed there was no other way, as the other side showed no sign of backing down.

Both Leeha’s side and the Virtuous Knight Order’s side seemed to be holding their breath, getting ready with their skills. It felt like they would clash instantly if no one intervened. Leeha was confident. At the very least, he could blow the head off the unlucky guy standing in front of him with a single shot. But what came after was the problem.

‘But is it really okay to fight here? We have the Sacred Knights on our side, but they outnumber us by far.’

Even with Red Goat paleo and Byulcho combined with some members of the Sacred Knight Order, their numbers were more than 50% greater. A battle here would result in severe casualties.

‘No, if they don’t back down anyway, the answer is clear. I need to shoot. If we don’t strike first, our chances of winning drop even further.’

Convincing himself, Leeha swallowed his saliva. Among the sentences he thought, as if casting a spell, one thought crossed his mind before any other. 『Can you really shoot? Can you really pull the trigger?』
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“What the- Why all of a sudden-”

At that moment, as Leeha’s index finger twitched, a user from the Virtue Knights sheathed their sword.

“Okay. I give up.”

“Huh?”

“Fighting here won’t benefit either of us, don’t you think? It doesn’t seem like you’re going to back down anyway. And we’re well aware of how frightening the Pope can be.”

The user from the Virtue Knights turned their back without any hesitation.

Leeha and his party were the ones taken aback by this prompt declaration of retreat.

“Y-you’re just leaving like that?”

“What else? Stay here and have a go at it?”

The user didn’t even bother to look back as they walked away, merely gesturing lightly towards the caravans with a hand.

“We’ll leave the carriages! Take what you need from them, paleos! We’ll talk another time when it’s quieter.”

The figure waved lightly, a cloak embroidered with a horned horse fluttering.

Rushing, Leeha shouted towards the knight user.

“Wait a minute! Who are you? What’s your deal?”

The retreating user’s steps halted. Turning around with a smirk, they then burst into a hollow laugh.

“Ha! I forgot to introduce myself. I’m ‘Lark en Ciel’. My friends just call me Lark; feel free to do the same.”

“I’ve heard that name somewhere-”

“Oh, right, right. Today might be a retreat, but being in pursuit of achievements doesn’t always mean building camaraderie, you know? If you do not accept our ‘generosity’, there’s only one other option we can take.”

Lark turned away again, followed closely by the entire Virtue Knights.


“‘Knight of the Rainbow’, Lark? Was he that famous?”

“Among outsiders, especially those in close combat roles, he’s almost top tier.”

“Is he better than you, Kijung?”

“Comparing me with him? Who else in Middle Earth would catch up to my tanking? Especially now!”

Kijung responded to Leeha’s question by proudly clanging his shield. The sound pealed more confidence than before, now that the enhancement was complete.

Of course, other members like Bobae, Shin Nara, Tale had no clue why Kijung was striking his shield. Even as guildmates, Kijung didn’t boast around that his shield was enhanced.

Therefore, Leeha couldn’t help but wear a more serious expression upon seeing Kijung’s response.

Holding an incredible shield, freshly enhanced, and gripping a legendary sword provided by Leeha himself, Kijung’s confidence solely lied with ‘tanking’.

‘Tanking without defeat means lagging far behind in damage, firepower… Is that scumbag really that strong?’

Bobae reinforced the implicit meaning behind Kijung’s modest statement.

“In a 1:1 fight, even Kijung couldn’t be sure. After all, the Virtue Knights are on par with the Sacred Knights of Fibiel, and he’s commanding a hundred knights. That’s a lot more authority than Nara has, right? And judging by his actions, he seems to be in command of the entire expedition of knights to the new continent.”

“Phew… I also have administrative authority within Sacred, but not the kind of command authority he has”, Shin Nara sighed in response to Bobae’s comment.

Leeha was still somewhat amazed at the distribution of masters everywhere.

Even after making a name for himself through various plays and wars, there were still so many users he didn’t know.

Considering the cumulative number of subscribers, that was to be expected.

“With that bandit-like face, calling him ‘Knight of the Rainbow’? Should leave out the ‘Rainbow’ and just call him ‘Knight of Thugs’, or better yet, ‘Thug Knight’ from the looks of it.”

Leeha grumbled in jest. Light laughter mixed in from the surroundings. Even Youngblood, who had been solemn all along, cracked a smile.

The knights of Virtue and Lark didn’t touch the relief goods they had placed between them, judging that it was entirely within their character to reappear someday and demand compensation, proclaiming, “We never gave this away for free. Pay up.”

“But apart from the intimacy achievement, is there anything else? What are those guys trying to do?”

“Uh, I’ve never heard of anything else.”


“Could it be the achievement for discovering new places?”

Ignoring their goodwill, there was only one option left.

What was this “one option”?

Kijung, Leeha, and Bobae tried to recall Lark’s last remark but couldn’t come up with a suitable answer. The same was true for Tale and other NPCs from the Sacred Knights. It was only to be expected.

They were unaware of another achievement that could be achieved based on the player’s playing style, distinct from skill level, game proficiency, or whether one’s level was high or low.

Shin Nara looked anxious.

“I’ve heard of it once before.”

“What? What have you heard?”

“Has anyone here cleared a quest involving a bandit gang?”

Shin Nara looked around nervously with an anxious expression. Leeha, too, had once received a quest to snipe a bandit leader called “Angel”. There was no way other players wouldn’t have encountered something similar.

“Those bandits… anyway, they’re classified as NPCs.”

“It’s a fine distinction. They seem closer to monsters. Maybe because they’re human, they’re classified as NPCs.”

Kijung tilted his head in confusion, but even Shin Nara didn’t know that much. However, it was clear from Leeha’s widening eyes that he realized what Shin Nara was hinting at.

“No way. You’re not suggesting…”

“I don’t know. But if it’s not the intimacy achievement, the only other method I can think of….”

Shin Nara shook her head anxiously, making Bobae look shocked.

“Eh? What is it? Hyung, do you know something?”

Kijung looked at Leeha’s face for an answer, but Leeha couldn’t see him. If Shin Nara was correct, then what the Virtue Knights had to do next was indeed dire.

“Then we must kill-”

“No, it’s different from killing”, Leeha voiced his thoughts, but Shin Nara shook her head. Strictly speaking, Leeha could only guess roughly; he hadn’t fully grasped the concept yet.


“What is it then?”

“There’s no need to kill their leader or annihilate them all.”

When Leeha had cleared the bandit quest, it was sufficient to confirm the assassination of just Angel.

So, they wondered if the Virtue Knights had gone to kill a spirit of another paleo tribe… Fortunately, that wasn’t the case.

All eyes turned to Shin Nara as she spoke.

“To achieve complete and utter submission from the entire NPC group. I once had a quest to arrest an entire guild of players who had achieved this. It’s the polar opposite of the 『Intimacy』 achievement. It’s a system driven not by ‘reputation’ but by ‘infamy.’

”

“What achievement is that?”

“It’s the 『Subjugation』 achievement.”

“That exists?”

“It’s normal you all don’t know about it… Because to advance to a certain stage, ‘reputation’ is essential, right? That’s why there wouldn’t be such players in our vicinity.”

“Anyway, the fact that gaining entry into the royal palace alone requires such renown says a lot.”

Shin Nara explained, leading some to nod in understanding, while a few others including Leeha seemed to hear this for the first time.

‘So, it’s like a “team battle”

sort of thing, huh?’

An achievement that could be earned by a group of players completely overpowering a group composed of NPCs—be it a specific village, a knight order, or a band of marauders.

Naturally, subduing aggressive and harmful NPC groups like marauders would increase not infamy but general renown. However, more often than not, such encounters ended with the entire band of marauders being wiped out, leaving the achievement unattainable.

‘That’s why it’s difficult. Subduing without killing anyone is harder than just killing everyone. It’s difficult without a significant gap in strength.’

This meant that in the continent of Lope, there were very few who had obtained the achievement of 『Subjugation』.

Those who were strong enough and had accumulated enough levels and stats to make a significant difference saw no reason to earn an achievement that would only accumulate infamy instead.

They would sooner earn achievements related to increasing affinity by fulfilling the desires of the NPC groups with their capabilities.

“How interesting. According to Nara-ssi, it means that a user named Lark could completely ‘subdue’ the paleos here.”

Tale said, his eyes sparkling as he quietly followed the conversation.

Understanding the structure of the subdued achievement, it was impossible not to be curious about the Virtuous Knight Order that hinted at seeking such an achievement.

Shin Nara nodded, glancing at Youngblood, a simple gesture that Leeha understood as well.

‘They’ll probably rely on numbers. Even the Sacred Knight Order could subdue the Red Goat if their numbers matched. The real issue is—’

As Leeha turned his head slightly, Kijung, Bobae, and Tale also turned their heads in the same direction.

‘Aibex. Whether they can subdue a mystical creature or not.’

Even the weakest mystical creatures possessed strength equal to juvenile-class dragons.

An Aibex in this region would undoubtedly be at least of adult class.

Given that an ancient-class being like Bailephus showed interest, its strength was already a matter of public knowledge.

‘The highest-ranking among the knight orders is the Capital Defense Knight Order, and quite a few of them have been dispatched here but… Can they really subdue a mystical creature with just that number of people? Subduing regular paleos would require at least equal numbers, and subduing a mystical creature would need a force comparable to a dragon raid.’

Killing was certainly a possibility.

Leeha himself could think of numerous methods, especially with his Shadow Hitman title.

Waiting hidden for days, then as soon as a mystical creature appears—strike between the eyes!

But for subjugation?

‘It seems tough no matter how I think about it. It’s not completely impossible but…

Without borrowing the power of Blaugrunn or Koma, subduing them all alone by Leeha would be nearly impossible.

What level of skill does Lark and the Virtuous Knight Order possess to speak so confidently?

What are they basing their assurance on?

As everyone was simulating their own methods of ‘subduing’, Kijung stood up.

“Why worry about it now? Unless you’re insane, you wouldn’t stir up trouble when you’re about to secure the Divine Staff.”

“They have already caused trouble, haven’t they?”

“At least not the kind of ‘subjugation’ Miss Shin mentioned. Their attitude towards obtaining land was unfortunate, but… the ones sent under Minis’s orders likely won’t cause trouble.”

Their method of exchanging goods for land was undoubtedly wrong, but there was some logic to Kijung’s words.

They hadn’t resorted to physical violence in this place, after all.

The Virtuous Knight Order had been the first to retreat before crossing the ultimate line.

Kijung might not be the type to calculate such outcomes, but his instinct was worth acknowledging.

Leeha felt the same way.

“I agree with Kijung’s words. They’re not foolish enough to cause a problem that big right now. The real issue is securing the Divine Staff first.”

However, Leeha was looking a bit further ahead.

Still, an immediate answer to this problem was elusive.

(To be continued…)
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“There’s only one thing we can do at this point.”

Tale nodded, taking out the crystal ball.

Without knowing the extent of the Virtue Knights’ capabilities and facing the possibility of a clash with them, the only option left was growth.

“Though we have less than a day.”

Shin Nara, too, gathered the members of the Sacred Knights upon understanding these words.

As if on cue, everyone activated their crystal orbs and dispersed.

“So… all nations, including Minis, dispatched their knight orders?”

“Yes, oka-san.”

“Well, I expected the Vatican to notice, of course… But to call Leeha again…”

Chiyou let out a light sigh.

It was almost a given that the storm in Ghibrid would spread far and wide. However, even Chiyou hadn’t anticipated they’d catch on so quickly and react just as fast.

“Probably tomorrow, the entire knight orders and players will go searching for the ‘Divine Staff’.”

“What the hell is this damn Divine Staff anyway? Ah, never mind. Anyway, you did well. The rest I’ll have to ask ‘someone who knows’.”

“Ha.”

“I thought we stepped in it when Fibiel Madon Frakchi was dispatched here… But I guess this is what they call a blessing in disguise? Huh, manage that guy well. And don’t visit Juma City too often.”

“Understood. Then, I’ll be off.”

The fact that Chiyou and Sasuke could quickly gauge the Old Continent’s response was, of course, thanks to the spies they had hidden everywhere.

With the ability to gather information from multiple sources and verify it through their dispatched NPCs in the New Continent, they didn’t experience any shortage due to gaps.

“Now, then…”


Chiyou carefully activated the crystal ball, feeling the presence of those around.

She was already aware that Faust and Igor were hiding somewhere, watching her.

To confidently teleport in these circumstances was to inscribe her location in their minds—meaning only she was directly connected to Rewa!

Shaaa…

Chiyou’s shadow melted into the light.

“Oh, if it isn’t Chiyou.”

“Count, and Toon-nim. I’ve come to tell you something urgent.”

The dwelling of Bluebeard.

A place where no player has ever set foot, Bluebeard and Toon were seated together.

『What is it?』

“It seems there are those who wish to interfere with us. I’ve been keeping an eye on their movements.”

“I suppose just some unlucky representative is making a fuss. Isn’t that right?”

Bluebeard spoke as if he already knew everything.

Chiyou nodded, watching him casually eat grapes, feet propped on the table.

“That’s correct. However, it seems a bit different this time. They claim they will secure the ‘Divine Staff’.”

Toon jolted, raising his voice in surprise.

『Divine Staff! Is that nefarious thing still here!』

Bluebeard stopped eating his grapes.

“It seems it’s not just ‘still here’. It was discovered near an old demon stronghold, which humans aimed for in the past.”

”Toon ”


『Yes, yes! Count.』

“What are you saying? There wasn’t supposed to be the Divine Staff on the land you managed.”

It was supposed to be their backyard, nowhere but near the demon stronghold. As Bluebeard’s eyes sharpened, Toon started to stammer.

『No, there was nothing like that where I was. Please believe me!』

“…Well, the demon stronghold isn’t just one place. *sigh* At that time, you were still too weak to grasp everything.”

Bluebeard scratched his head with his cane.

It was clear, even to Chiyou, from his expression that he was troubled and annoyed.

“The right-hand man is dead, nowhere to be seen, and there’s no one else worth their salt… Chiyou!”

“Yes, Count.”

“Do you know when they’re moving?”

“The information I’ve obtained indicates they will depart tomorrow. However, I too have not been able to ascertain the precise location.”

Chiyou inadvertently concealed this piece of information. Had the location of the Divine Staff, which Chiyou had discovered, been fully disclosed to the Papacy, they too would have become aware of it.

Listening to Chiyou, Bluebeard nodded.

“They are in a hurry. Good. Toon, Chiyou. You both know what you need to do?”

The significance of the dangers associated with the Divine Staff was best understood by those beings associated with the demonic, who would be directly impacted by its influence.

『Leave it to us, Count. We will not disappoint you.』

“Ultimately, there are seven places to turn, or six, excluding where Toon had been. We will deploy everyone to start the search from those locations.”

Hearing Toon and Chiyou’s response, Bluebeard burst into a hearty laugh.

“That’s very good.”

The plan of the Pope and humanity to secure the Divine Staff and wait for a divine spirit to imbue it while preparing for defense was facing a crisis before it had even begun.


Ta-a-a-a-ang—

A jubilant gunshot blasted from the Kentucky Musket.

Blood sprayed like a fountain from the head of a High-Troll, about 330 meters away.

“Typical monsters are manageable, but…” Sighing, Leeha watched the troll collapse in a cloud of white smoke that billowed out.

No matter how strong their regenerative abilities were, a bullet through the brain meant certain death.

‘In about three or four hours, Bottleneck-ssi should finish up, and then I can depart tomorrow morning with what he’s prepared.’

As the sun set, Leeha reviewed his plans.

If Bottleneck kept his promise to reinforce us wholly, tonight they would find Black Bass.

And the journey to locate the 『Divine Staff』 would begin tomorrow.

‘But what is this unease…?’

Even though Leeha was about to embark on a journey equipped with an array of different weapons, his heart was filled with a trembling excitement he could not calm.

It wasn’t just about Toon.

When he had targeted Lark of the Virtuous Knight Order, a sudden question had echoed in his mind.

‘Can I handle it? How strong must one be to act so arrogantly?’

If they knew about him, they wouldn’t have been so bold. Lark had recognized that Leeha’s weapon wasn’t Black Bass.

At such close range, even a musket bullet traveling nearly the speed of sound would be anticipated by Lark to shatter his skull.

‘Could he have prepared a shield spell in advance?’

Even if Lark had used a shield spell, what then?

The gunfire from the Kentucky Musket and the shield of Blaugrunn would barely withstand Leeha’s onslaught.

Yet a user, not even a tanker, had shown such composure.

‘Sure, they could be stronger than a tanker.’

Just like the current Leeha.

There had to be some ace up their sleeve. Amidst his tangled thoughts, Leeha’s tension morphed back into excitement. Lark was indeed an annoying user.

But at least for tomorrow?

‘While I shouldn’t lower my guard, for now, we’re on the same team…

Whether it’s confidence in his own strength or not, I’ll find out tomorrow.

If he truly is strong, that in itself will be a strength; if weak, it could mean an easy resolution to conflicts surrounding paleos in the future.

‘Whatever it is, let’s think positively for now.’

Quickly reloading his musket, Leeha prepared for another shot.

Another High-Troll approached near the corpse of its comrade, seeking to confirm the tragic fate of its ally. Thwack——–

As a fountain of blood erupted from the troll’s head and a flash of white light sparked from Leeha’s body.

“Form up——-!Align!”

“Get in line! Line! Front and center!”

“Make sure to secure your potions!”

“First, apply the speed buff! Manage your stamina carefully until we reach the 『Divine Staff』!”

The outskirts of Juma City had been bustling since morning.

Since the quest was not a wave-like event, there weren’t as many people gathered.

“Figures, all the notable guilds have shown up.”

“It’s more like an elite force, honestly.”

“… Though I wouldn’t exactly call this few.”

Nonetheless, the number wasn’t small.

Excluding the general riff-raff, about three thousand people had accepted the quest through the Papal Edict.

Just combining the number from the defense knight orders of the four nations alone reached nearly 500, not to mention the general knight order NPCs, affiliated users, and the participation of most of the major guilds.

Where spirited people gathered, small disturbances were bound to occur endlessly, but as soon as a figure in a tall hat and red priest robes appeared, everyone fell silent.

“Has he not arrived yet?”

“That, that is correct, Your Grace.”

“No need for such formalities in a non-official setting, bishop. We are all bishops here, aren’t we?”

“Th-thousand pardons! It is an honor for me to serve in the presence of the Cardinal himself, so please, retract such a statement.”

The NPC, called a bishop, stammered, bowing his head. However, the Cardinal in red priest robes only wore a kind smile.

“Understood. Then, you may call me Cardinal Romero.”

“If it is your wish, cardinal.”

The NPC with the authority to summon an emergency decree to the Pope upon sensing Ghibrid’s energy is the envoy bishop to the New Continent. Yet, even such an NPC could not make a move in his presence.

Cardinal Romero.

A cardinal bishop who is also ranked amongst the top hierarchy of the Ezwen Church.

Even users not affiliated with Ezwen knew his name, such was the fame of this priest.

Meaning, he held an authority almost equal to the Pope as a plenipotentiary.

And of course, there was one reason for his dispatch here!

“His Holiness really has a sense of humor, sending me in this age to search for the 『Divine Staff』. Has the time come for me to wield a staff as well?”

“Far from it! You’re still in your prime, cardinal Romero, it’s not fitting to joke about such a matter.”

Romero, once again, flashed that kind smile, surveying the users and NPCs around him.

Even the proud knights of the capital defense order bowed and paid their respects before Romero.

Regrettably, the person he most wished to see was not yet present.

“So… when will Leeha-nim arrive?”

“I shall check immediately. Just a moment—”

As the bishop mopped his brow, attempting to select users close to Leeha, a lavender light flashed on the outskirts of Juma City.

“Wowwww!”

“Argh! Hyung!? Why now—”

“Hey, what’s with this chain teleport scroll? Sorry, Kijung!”

Crushed under Kijung as they fell from the sky, Leeha moved quickly without a proper apology.

Because those gathered, including Cardinal Romero, had been waiting for Leeha.

“My apologies! I’m late!”

“Oh, Leeha-nim, really. How could you be late on such a day?”

Even without Blaugrunn chattering by the side, Leeha was well aware. To make such a blunder on the first day of the search for the 『Divine Staff』!

Of course, there was a very important reason.

After all, one can’t head to the battlefield without their weapon, can they?

“Is it my fault!? Bottleneck-ajussi was fiddling with this just before. Excuse me! Make way—”

“Are you Leeha-nim?”
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“Ah, yes,

“Indeed. If we have a dragon’s lead, there’s no need to worry.”

“Pardon?”

Romero, standing beside Blaugrunn, nodded his head.

Just when he was about to question what the sudden appearance of this grandfather meant, Romero introduced himself.

“I am Romero, who has come from Ezwen to secure the ‘Divine Staff’.”

“Ah, I see. My apologies for being late. A task I was preparing got slightly derailed, so I couldn’t help but be late—”

“How, how dare you! Do you know how long Cardinal Romero has been waiting for you!?”

Unlike Romero, a bishop NPC beside him was hopping mad, yet Romero soon calmed him down.

“It’s alright. What matters is what he has to do going forward… Waiting is of little consequence to me. Now, Leeha-ssi, shall we start with the guidance?”

“Ah, yes.”

Leeha nodded hesitantly. He felt a peculiar charisma emanating from the old man.

‘A character quite different from Bahamut or Rotzak. He appears kind but possesses an unmistakable charisma.’

Just knowing about dragons, it was clear he must be a person of considerable abilities.

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Ah, fernand-ssi.”

“Let’s go. Today, I will be your ‘guide assistant’.”

“Ha, unbelievable! To think I would get the opportunity to have Fernand, the Pioneer King, as an assistant!”

Fernand caught up to Leeha’s side.


Checking the map Fernand had spread out, Leeha nodded towards Blaugrunn.

Before leaving, he had spent the whole night at the Bottleneck’s Smithy pondering over what to say and how to say it.

As Leeha levitated into the air, all eyes were focused on him.

“Our destination is the former base of demons, the fifth one. Even when it was cleared, the area was swarming with monsters. Furthermore, now the ‘roots’ of the demon bases are interconnected, so it’s uncertain how many monsters are present there. Please, be prepared for the worst-case scenario and proceed with caution!”

The knights’ guilds and other user guilds momentarily hesitated.

Even as Leeha issued a stern warning, an unbelievable truth came to light that couldn’t be ignored.

“The fifth base, you say? Wasn’t it said that no one had cleared it? If it’s still undisclosed…”

“Yeah, I heard rumors that someone secretly cleared it, but…”

“It can’t be Alexander. He always roamed with different guilds.”

“Lee Jiwon made such a fuss asking who had cleared it… Could it possibly be him—”

“That person doesn’t even have a guild, so how could he clear it? It’s impossible to do it alone.”

The murmuring spread like wildfire.

Trust and distrust, suspicion and excitement quickly took over the knights.

Most of all, since Leeha appeared to have no guild affiliation, the biggest question was ‘with whom did he clear it?’

“Oh dear, Leeha, you didn’t have to say that…”

“Times like these really show his naivety.”

“Pfft, but that’s one of Leeha-ssi’s strengths. He tells us things to prevent us from making mistakes, things he could’ve kept secret.”

Ignoring the whispers, Leeha shouted once more.

“Then let’s depart! We have 12 days to secure the Divine Staff! Prioritizing its acquisition!”

Despite the myriad of questions, fortunately, everyone kept silent.


Instead, a unified word came from everyone’s lips.

“Departureeeeeee!”

The 3,000-strong ‘Divine Staff’ capture team set off from Juma City.”

Leeha-ssi, can you see them?”

“Yes. It’s massive. By a rough estimate, there’s over two hundred.”

“Two hundred… But since there’s no way to detour, we have to go through them.”

Leading the vanguard of the occupation unit, Leeha and Fernand were searching for the optimal route.

“A little more consideration; on this side, there are two hundred Armored High-Trolls. Earlier on the other side, there were five hundred mixed with Ogres and Trolls. It might be better to choose the easier side.”

Including Blaugrunn, they were trying to choose a route that avoided monsters as much as possible, but it wasn’t as easy as said. With the distribution of monsters changed and even their level increased, there was no way to reach the Divine Staff without encountering some.

“Well, we have enough people, so the side with fewer monsters might be better. The level difference is trivial for these folks.”

Leeha glanced back. Up until departure, users and knight orders that had been chattering about this and that were now completely focused on the mission without a hint of wavering.

“Understood. Let’s prepare for battle. Dragon, are there any hidden enemies?”

“None, human.”

“Okay, then. Let’s decide that place for our battlefield. I’ll arrange a surprise attack focusing on the knight orders.”

After barely getting an answer from Blaugrunn, fernand ran towards the cardinals and bishops.

Leeha found something amusing in that.

“As commanding as you speak, you’re just a kid.”

“What are you talking about! Shh! If that human heard what you just said, they wouldn’t forgive you, not even if you’re Leeha-ssi!”

“Understood, dragon Lord!”

Unlike Leeha, Blaugrunn was extremely cold to others.


Although aware of the situation, Leeha couldn’t help but laugh at Blaugrunn’s pretentious serious demeanor.

“Everything’s ready.”

“Already? Elite is truly elite. Let’s do this quietly, swiftly, and decisively. I’ll give special observations and orders through Fernand-ssi.”

The chosen NPCs and users also had a clear understanding of the command structure. There was no one who didn’t understand the orders to the extent of asking again.

With the order given, they raced towards the Armored High-Trolls. Making use of the terrain for cover, their approach was rapid.

“Closing to 400m. The foes haven’t noticed us yet—300m—250m.”

Leeha narrated their movements as if commentating, continuously scrutinizing the situation through his scope.

Listening to him, fernand relayed the information to each representative, and they, in turn, informed their respective teams, making the group’s movement as agile as one entity.

“Entering combat.”

When Fernand suggested sending only the elite, Leeha thought it might be better to push through with all three thousand troops. But seeing the situation now, this seemed like the better option.

“…they should have come to help during the wave.”

Their battle was impeccably clean.

During the wave, a High-Troll would require at least five to ten users in their early 200s to handle one. Yet, here they were, three members perfectly subduing an Armored High-Troll.

The battle seemed fierce, but for those waiting or observing, it ended so easily it was almost mundane.

“Battle over! Twelve minor injuries among our troops, one seriously injured. The minor injuries have been healed on the spot; the seriously injured has two healers assigned and we will advance again!”

Facing two hundred Armored High-Trolls, there was only one seriously injured.

The journey to secure the Divine Staff seemed easier and faster than expected.

That was until Leeha saw something.

“Hey, what’s that?”

“What? There’s nothing on the ground.”

“Not on the ground—”

Leeha pointed in a direction and increased the magnification on his scope.

“In the sky. There was definitely a strange symbol there.”

Blaugrunn used mana detection beside him.

“The distance is quite significant… It doesn’t register for me. Was it just a bird?”

“Wait a minute, even for a bird, it was quite large. It cast a shadow on the ground after all. No matter how improved the scope is, it’s not like it can see a bird’s shadow… That was definitely something bigger than a bird-”

“Bigger than a bird?!”

“This… this is getting unsettling?”

The fact that whenever something ‘bigger than a bird’ was discovered, something that defied common sense usually happened, came to Leeha’s mind.

That ominous premonition soon became reality.

“What… what is that!? It’s huge!”

“What is it? What is it?”

“I don’t know! A lion? A lion without a mane? Just a bald lion— but with wings, like bat-like membrane wings, the body of some beast like a griffin—”

“A manticore?”

As Leeha rapidly described the strange flying creature in the scope, Blaugrunn’s expression twisted.

“A manticore? There are no manticores in Middle Earth!”

Fernand, who was next to him, exclaimed in surprise.

“What are you talking about!? There are manticores, just not commonly seen! But why is it suddenly here? Leeha-ssi! The tail, what about the tail? Is it a scorpion tail? Or does it look like a snake?”

“I can’t see the tail! It’s positioned this way, but why suddenly ask about the tail? Blaugrunn-ssi, how big is a typical manticore?”

“If it has a scorpion tail, then a height of 3 meters, body length of 8 meters; if it’s a snake head, then a height of 8 meters, body length of 20 meters!”

“I can’t see the tail, but its size is approximately…”

Leeha swallowed nervously.

Warnings were screaming in his head.

“What’s going on.”

It was then Romero approached and tapped Fernand on the shoulder.

Since the battle had ended, they needed to advance, but no other orders had come from this direction.

As the situation continued, those waiting began to grow curious, which is why Romero had come this far.

“Ah, cardinal. It seems something has appeared. Leeha-ssi is currently observing the potential threat.”

“A threat? I see nothing with my own eyes… must be Leeha-ssi then, what exactly is it?”

Romero glanced at Leeha and nodded.

Though he didn’t seem overly worried, perhaps due to having easily finished the recent battle.

“Um, it was a new name to me too. According to Dragon, it’s called a manticore—”

“A manticore! Is that true?”

It was then Cardinal Romero’s gentle squint narrowed.

Fernand still looked puzzled, but Romero seemed to clearly understand the gravity of the situation.

“The appearance of a manticore means—”

“It could signify that Ghibrid’s power is manifesting to some extent, one of Ghibrid’s breed. That one of his chimera toys is showing itself…”

Blaugrunn provided the answer.

The emergence of a monster never seen before! And one that is related to Ghibrid!

Romero hesitantly approached Leeha.

“Leeha-ssi, how far is it from us?”

“If Blaugrunn-ssi’s estimate of its size is correct, then it’s about 3.6km ahead in the air. It’s coming this way.”

Leeha answered without taking his eyes off the scope. Recognizing the urgency, cardinal Romero quickly spoke up.

“Then we should hide for now. If Ghibrid has released it… um, in the worst case, there might be others…”

even if not, a manticore itself differs from normal monsters. A messenger of the Chimera nests, executing Ghibrid’s will! Its size belies its viciousness and cunning, resulting in a massive loss of human lives during the Second Human-Demon War.”

“Is that so?”

Leeha’s hands were busily moving ever since he heard about the monster’s size from Blaugrunn.

Therefore, his response sounded somewhat indifferent and careless.

That made the respectful voice of Romero become more urgent.

“It seems you don’t fully grasp what I’m saying, we need to hide immediately. If it’s just one creature, we might be able to handle it, but our losses won’t be trivial. For the sake of securing 『the light of God』, we must first issue an evacuation order to—”

“Did you say you’re Cardinal Romero?”

Leeha’s hands finally stopped. He steadied his breath and asked Cardinal Romero.

(To be continued…)
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“Yes, I am—”

“Could you please be quiet for a moment?”

“What do you mean—”

Leeha didn’t respond any further. The most crucial thing at this moment was focus! And the silence around!

“How dare you! To speak to the Cardinal in such a manner—”

The face of a bishop NPC, who caught up late to hear Leeha’s words, flushed red, but Leeha was already in a state where such things were no longer heard.

The only concern right now was the sensation in the index finger.

Baaaaang——–!

A louder and more tremendous tolling of a gun resounded than ever before.

“Wow!?”

“Click!”

It was no ordinary gunshot. Centered around where Leeha stood, it was an act of attack accompanied by powerful vibrations strong enough to stir up the dust.

“Oh!? Ouch.”

Leeha, who was in a shooter’s stance, was pushed back and lost balance enough to stumble due to the recoil.

“Leeha-ssi, are you all right!?”

“Uh, I’m fine but—just a moment—” Leeha detached the hands of Blaugrunn assisting him and checked the scope first. Then, he pointed with his finger.

“Do you all see that over there?”

“See what?”

“I’m not sure what you’re suggesting. We don’t see anything.”


Blaugrunn and Fernand shook their heads.

Leeha flicked his fingers and showed an expression of regret.

“That’s a shame. I can’t show you the manticore falling. Oh, but Cardinal Romero? Didn’t you mention something about Ghibrid’s messenger or something? One shot, right?”

“One… shot?”

Romero pronounced “one shot” with difficulty as if he had just learned to speak, causing the bishop NPCs to look at the cardinal in confusion.

“Cardinal Romero?”

“One… shot? What does ‘one shot’ mean, may I ask?”

“Really? You’ve come from the Vatican and you don’t know what that means? Ah! Is it because I was too vague? Hmm… What I mean is, why did the manticore, the whatever of Ghibrid, die in just one shot?”

Leeha asked nonchalantly, but Romero still had a blank face.

Blaugrunn and Fernand were bewildered.

“Leeha-ssi? Did you just—”

“Ah, how far did you say it was?”

Seeing their dumbfounded expressions, Leeha sighed. It was regrettable but true; he did take it down in one shot, yet explaining the situation himself felt bitter.

“Yes, the manticore is dead. Sigh… Anyway, it was the distance that was the issue. A manticore should definitely be above level 250! That damn thing was incredibly fast. I thought I shot it before it entered within 3.5km but…

Leeha aimed for a one-hit lethal shot.

To test the power of 《Black Bass》 enhanced by Bottleneck, and in the meantime, to clear the quest 《Seal of Black Bass-5》.

The manticore was indeed a monster-level creature surpassing 250 levels.

It would have been a clear shot if it stayed still, but during the aiming and the bullet’s flight, the distance moved by the creature exceeded 100m, barely resulting in its death within the 3,500m range.

“That… That’s… over a distance of 3km, anyway—”

“Ah, well. Hehe, fernand-ssi? Not that it needs to be said, but you know this is a secret, right?”


By now, the look of regret had disappeared from Leeha’s face.

Looking at Fernand, he winked subtly. Ha’s face bloomed with laughter, a reaction that was inevitable. Just moments ago, the recoil from his shot had caused him to lose his balance and tumble – a clear indication of what had just transpired.

“I didn’t even use the Joint Fixation down or the Sniper skill. Ehehe… and yet!”

He had successfully hit a manticore from a distance of almost 3.5km. Suppressing a laugh, Leeha turned his gaze to the Black Bass he held in his hand, its name derived from the dark hue that now bore a faint blush of excitement. **『Lava-Powered First Enhancement of the Legendary Black Bass』 (Not Tradable)** **Attack Power:** (User’s Agility) + (User’s Agility * 9) **Effect:** Agility +25 **Description:** Hearing about Black Bass’s range and lethality from Miss Elizabeth, the legendary dwarf decided to seal it in the form of a musket following her disappearance.

“Such a thing should not exist in this world! I, the ‘Bright Hammer’, will seal its power for the sake of all living beings.”

Perhaps due to the legendary dwarf’s seal, no one has since utilized Black Bass’s original power. **Additional Effect:** Activation of extra skill upon seal release **Additional Description:** Dwarf hero Bottleneck managed to enhance Black Bass’s basic abilities using lava. While he was successful in the first enhancement, he seemed unsatisfied.

“Damn, I can sort of manage to make it shoot further, but increasing its firepower is another story. Who in the world is the madman who originally made this? I can’t trust the analyses of monkeys; I need to analyze this myself!”

Nonetheless, the first enhancement resulted in a 25% increase in attack power and doubled the effective range. **Additional Effect-2:** Change in base attack power (Additional 25%) **Change in Basic Range:** “Hehehe… The agility-based attack power has already been adjusted from Agility + Agility*9 as mentioned in the additional description, bringing about an increase of about 25%. Yet, what Leeha desired wasn’t just a boost in attack power.

‘A whopping double the range!’

Considering the gun’s original specs, Leeha had calculated its effective range to be about 2,000m, but with this enhancement, it had increased to an astonishing 4,000m. It was this enhancement that allowed him to hit a manticore nearly 3.5km away without using any skills and without even aiming the muzzle.

‘While the priority was the range, the power is not to be underestimated either! The range may have doubled, but 25% – how much has each shot increased by?’

Ha’s current agility stands at 3,579, making the standard attack power a staggering 35,790 with a tenfold increase. But that’s not all. Leeha possesses a skill known as Forbidden Fury, a Dark Elf berserker-class skill that boosts attack power by sacrificing total HP. The applied attack power reaches an astounding 42,948. Considering the difficulty of detecting Leeha over significant distances, surpassing even a dragon’s basic mana detection range, what if Leeha remains undetectable to his target from over 4km away? ‘To think the title of Shadow Hitman applies… the attack power would be—’ 85,896.

‘Right, right. There was also what I earned slicing up those trolls?’

Eighty-five thousand is an absurd figure. Yet, Leeha had gained additional attack power against large monsters by acquiring the Troll’s Bane. Including the effect from the Hall of Fame, a further 15% was added, leaving Leeha speechless.

‘Insane, a single attack power of 98,780…? If I level up agility a bit more, without even using skills, a basic attack could hit 100,000!’

Without considering defenses, this was an outrageously high figure, capable of killing even a buffed Kijung with a single blow. And yet, there was more. Leeha had thought he’d failed to achieve a one-hit defeat with the Black Bass quest, but he had achieved it through another means.

‘I even bagged an achievement, hehe.’

Leeha remembered the achievement fanfare that erupted at the moment the gunfire ceased. Just as he was about to open it, the person who spoke to him was Fernand.

“Excuse me, Leeha-ssi?”

“Ah, ah!? Yes, yes. Let’s go now. It doesn’t seem like there’s anything around.”


Urged by Leeha, fernand also hurriedly got to his feet.

Though Fernand thought he knew enough about Leeha, from the ‘moment he thought he knew’ him, Leeha had been changing, constantly and consistently.

‘Where does this person end…’

As Leeha quickly finished his preparations, Romero’s expression returned to normal. His face still held astonishment at the sight of Leeha, but it wasn’t the soulless stare of before; now, it was a mix of pride and admiration.

“To defeat a manticore in a single strike… Truly, you are a person blessed by God himself. You are truly amazing, Leeha-ssi.”

“Oh, why are you making such a fuss? Hehe, you’ve seen it, right!? I’ll surely guard you as steadfastly as a Cardinal, so, when you enter the Vatican, please speak well of me to the Pope. Ahem, well, not that I’m desiring any reward but… You know, right?”

Leeha showed Romero a bright smile.

The astonishing and audacious achievement of Leeha rendered the bishop NPC standing beside Romero utterly unable to express any further anger.

“Let’s go! Forward march! We’ve almost reached halfway!”

Leeha once again led his forces towards the 『Divine Staff』.

The joy and the accomplishment of capturing the manticore were indeed events worth being elated over. However, the failure to seriously contemplate why the manticore was here, where it was headed, or why it had revealed itself at this moment was, at this point, a clear oversight by Leeha.

『Executor and Proxy of Ghibrid’s Will and Purpose』

Being the first to know of the manticore’s demise was a privilege reserved for those entrusted with its will and purpose.

『Achievement: One Shot, one Kill – Creator of Chimera (S-)』

Congratulations! With a single strike, you have dispatched Ghibrid’s emissary, the manticore! The demonic aura is already enveloping the continent of Middle Earth. What you need moving forward is formidable power and the will to achieve it. May you rescue the God’s creatures from the grip of the demon king.

Reward: Strength +7, agility +7, intelligence +7 Damage Increase +10% when hit by a flying monster Attack Increase +5% when attacking a flying monster

You are the first to register the 『One Shot, one Kill – Creator of Chimera』 achievement.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with the original effects increased by 200%.

Effect: Strength +14, agility +14, intelligence +14 Damage Increase +20% when hit by a flying monster Attack Increase +10% when attacking a flying monster

‘Oh, it’s definitely an S- rank!’

Proud of himself for slaying such a creature in a single blow, Leeha reviewed the details of his achievement.

If the S- rank one-hit achievement had been triggered, the level must have been over 250.

It was regrettable, once again, that he had been slightly too far away to clear the Black Beast quest.

‘Plus, additional attack power against flying monsters! The extra damage doesn’t really matter since I’ll likely never get hit anyway but… Huh?’

If it includes all flying monsters?

It occurred to Leeha that ‘dragons’ fell within that category. Being large and flying types, their already formidable attack power would increase by a total of 30%…

‘Hehe, maybe another one will show up? This time, I’ll definitely take it down from 3.5km away. I’d like to see that, mr. Manticore!’

Leeha’s mystical creatures were high enough to want to draw in again the monster that had given Cardinal Romero and Blaugrunn the chills.

“A chimera creating chimera, you say…”

“Yes. That’s another name for the manticore. You heard what the bishop said earlier, didn’t you?”

“Uh… What did they say?”

“Ah, come on, the emissary delivering Ghibrid’s will! That’s what’s annoying about it.”

“What does it do?”

“Huh? Leeha-ssi just told you.”
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“A Manticore… creating Chimeras?”

“That’s right. Its tail does just that. If you’re pricked by its scorpion-shaped tail, you automatically become fused with the objects around you… And if it’s the snake-headed form, those swallowed by it become one single entity.”

Blaugrunn furrowed his brow in confusion. Although almost completely ignorant about Chimeras, he found the discussion somewhat fascinating.

“Weren’t Chimeras originally created through alchemy or in a laboratory, or something like that?”

“That’s true for novice mages. Ghibrid, and his offspring, on the other hand, are not like that. The Manticore with the scorpion tail generates random Chimeras, while the Manticore with the snake head creates selective Chimeras. These two are virtually nests for creating Chimeras.”

Leeha recalled the mass of Chimeras he had once hunted alongside Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. They were a haphazard mix, so blended together that their original forms were unrecognizable.

‘Manticore… Ghibrid created those too, huh.’

He had thought Chimeras were just haphazardly put together. But then, the Chimeras he had slain might have been created by the scorpion-tailed Manticore.

‘And he mentioned “offspring.”

So, besides Manticores, are there other monsters performing the same role?’

While Leeha was ruminating on Blaugrunn’s words, a member of the knighthood approached them. Lifting his visor revealed a middle-aged face filled with a sense of pride and accomplishment.

“Leeha-ssi, the battle is over.”

“Ah, yes. Thank you for your hard work.”

“Should we scout for other monsters in the vicinity?”

“No, that won’t be necessary. I’ve already confirmed it.”

While the knighthood had been engaging in battle, Leeha, using Blaugrunn’s magic and his own scope, had completed all the reconnaissance.

“Indeed… You’re as prepared as the rumors say. My name is Ethan, and I serve as the deputy commander of Kraven’s Third Maritime Defense. During the national conflict, drake launched from my area of responsibility.”

“What? Oh, yes.”

Leeha was taken aback by the hand suddenly offered to him. Given the reverence for Drake, it clearly had to be an NPC, but why this sudden show of friendship? ‘I’m sorry, I told him not to bother you with a whisper, but he insisted that he must see Leeha-ssi -‘ ‘This NPC?’


‘Yes. It seems Cardinal Romero and the Bishop have been talking a lot about Leeha-ssi behind the scenes.’

Fernand, standing behind Ethan, had a sheepish expression.

‘I suppose I hadn’t asked him not to tell. But considering he doesn’t know about our distance, he must only have mentioned the sniping. Luckily for me.’

Leeha, not one to boast about her strength, was puzzled by the cordial approach by Cardinal Romero and the Bishop NPCs. However, turning away a guest who had come all this way would be rude. Especially since Kraven was closer to Minis, a friendly nation, rather than Fibiel. It couldn’t hurt to know more.

“Pleasure to meet you, deputy Commander Ethan. I’ve seen Drake a few times, but the next time I meet him, I’ll pass along your regards.”

“Do you really mean that? You still have contact with Commander Drake?”

Ethan’s mustache seemed to bristle at the question.

“Ah, yes. Well, occasionally.”

“Could you possibly tell me where he is? His Majesty has been asking-”

“Now, now, deputy Commander Ethan. I understand your enthusiasm, but we have other priorities to attend to first, don’t we? Let’s get back into formation so we can retrieve the Divine Staff.”

Ethan, almost yanking Leeha’s shoulder in his eagerness, was halted by Fernand. Fernand continued to apologize to Leeha, though it was unclear what for.

“Greetings, Leeha-ssi.”

“I’ve heard much about you.”

“Did we perhaps meet in Minis? Just after the national conflict ended, I caught a glimpse of you from afar during your visit to the southern part of Minis.”

“W-wait, hold on, just a moment-”

Like Ethan, other knights with sparkling eyes began to crowd around Leeha continuously. It was due to the throngs that were coming. The knights, originally NPCs with a relatively well-established command system, showed such a strong gaze of respect and desire toward Leeha that they refused to follow Fernand’s orders.

“It feels like something I’ve experienced before, yet again!?”

Leeha felt both pleased and somewhat annoyed as he had to endure their attention while moving forward to secure the 『Divine Staff』. The atmosphere among the 『Divine Staff』 occupation team had indeed improved and turned more positive after Leeha’s manticore hunting incident spread, with Blaugrunn chuckling among them. The group, which had been tense despite its competence, now found itself able to afford a modicum of ease. Even as various large monsters continued to appear, they were no match for the elite users and NPCs gathered. In fact, the severely injured that appeared in the first battle ceased to emerge in the second and third battles altogether.

“We’ve made it…”

How many hours had it been since they had been advancing? Within Leeha’s scope, a long object was spotted.


“It’s visible ahead! We’ll arrive in about 1 hour! The 『Divine Staff』 is in sight!”

It was the 『Divine Staff』, located beyond the source of the fifth demon, previously cleared by the 『Leeha Squadron』.

“Have we finally arrived?!”

“Yes, it seems so. It’ll take about an hour’s brisk walk from here, but…”

“But what?”

“Wasn’t this place the source of the demons?”

“Right. And what issue does that pose?”

“Well, just saying.”

Leeha awkwardly chuckled and scratched his head. Had the source of the demons weakened since the past? Unlikely. More monsters than ever were blocking the path to the 『Divine Staff』.

“We expected this, didn’t we?”

Blaugrunn snorted. With his enhanced 『Object Recognition』, Leeha could see fine mana gathering around his body.

“Right. That’s why we came together.”

Leeha responded and looked back.

“Fernand-ssi! Please relay the message to each of the knight commanders. I will report to the Archbishop.”

“Will you be staying back, Leeha-ssi?”

“I’m not going to be leading the battle, and there’s not much for me to do at the forefront anyway. I’ll provide support from the back.”

Leeha smiled at Fernand. Indeed, as the leader and vanguard, there was no need for Leeha to take the lead once the battle involving all forces began.

“Understood! I’ll relay the message right away.”

After hearing Leeha’s words, fernand ran back. Leeha then whispered to Kijung.

-Kijung, we’re entering battle. It’s a full-scale battle.


-Okay. I’ve been waiting for this! I wonder if Fernand-ssi is being considerate, since I’ve never been deployed in battle before, it’s been boring.

-Keek, acting as if you’re desperate to fight. Anyway, the number of enemies is not small, so be careful! And- Leeha swallowed and continued speaking to Kijung. Leeha’s reason for staying back was not only to protect Archbishop Romero.

-『Knight of the Rainbow』 Lark. Try to keep an eye on him as much as possible. It’s even better if you can watch him fight from nearby. Just in case, observe his patterns and skills too.

-Hmm. Got it. You’ll be watching from behind too, right? -Of course. If anything happens, I’ll be ready to crack some heads, so don’t worry. It was necessary to identify and, if needed, eliminate potential threats in advance. As Leeha wore a serious face, Blaugrunn tugged at his sleeve.

“Am I going to play with the bear again this time?”

“Heh, I’m grateful to have someone like you, Blaugrunn, who describes it as ‘playing’. Can you do it? The conditions are the same. If you need the dragon form, I’ll let you know.”

“Understood.”

How strong could the 『Knight of the Rainbow』 be? If one were to mobilize all the resources at their disposal, not just Lark alone, but”It might even be possible to compete with the entire Order of L’eturel knights!”

Leeha regained his composure and approached Cardinal Romero once again.

Ever since the Manticore sniper incident, the bishop NPC would always make a startled face upon seeing Leeha, but Leeha didn’t care.

After all, the most important person here wasn’t some bishop NPC, but Cardinal Romero himself.

“The preparations are complete, cardinal”, Leeha reported to Romero.

He informed Romero that the 『Divine Staff』 was practically within arm’s reach, and, importantly, between them and it lay a colossal horde of monsters.

Quietly, there in the spot, Romero knelt down.

“Cardinal! To do this here-”

A flustered bishop NPC tried to approach, but Leeha blocked his path with the Black Bast, held horizontally.

“How dare you block me, insolent fool!”

“Shh. Hey, old man, don’t you notice anything?”

“What- what are you talking about? What do you know!”

“Even if you look at me, I’m ex-military. Normally, it would be the soldiers, no, isn’t this man essentially a military officer? Giggle, it’s only natural for him to offer a prayer before battle.”

As Leeha had anticipated, Romero quietly began murmuring his prayers.

“In the name of Lord Ahlo, I bless you all. May you have the courage and strength to confront the demonic hoards, and may you return with smiles, offering thanks for His grace.”

With that prayer, Romero slowly raised his hands toward the sky.

Whooooosh

It happened in an instant.

“Wha-!?”

A bright yellow wave of light emanated from the tips of his fingers, quickly absorbed by the bodies of all three thousand knights.

“…It’s a buff.”

“A stackable buff? What’s happening, why are my health and mana like this?”

“My attributes increased, too. This is insane…?”

Even Saint Raphaella couldn’t dare attempt such a widespread buff.

Leeha couldn’t help but keep his mouth shut as he observed both his character screen and the reactions of the knight order around him.

‘Indeed… the Cardinal is of a different calibre!’

Leeha admired purely.

Furthermore, the morale of the knight order was instantly boosted by Cardinal Romero’s tremendous abilities.

“Alright! Then let’s start the assault with the ready knight order! Our goal is the 『Divine Staff』, let’s secure it by the end of today!”

As the sun moved towards the afternoon, Leeha raised his voice.

With about 3 hours until sunset, the elite knight orders from the four nations of the Lope Continent shouted their own cries as they began their charge.

“Elite indeed. I thought the wave event participant users, including tough ones like Alexander and Lee Jiwon, being absent might make a difference, but it was an unnecessary worry.”

Leeha admired as he watched the knight order engage in battle.

There were average players involved in the wave event, but clearly, there were also many experts among them.

But now?

Both the users part of the knight order and even the NPCs were overpowering the monsters as they fought.

‘Well, they have been coordinating continuously thus far; it makes sense that they would have an advantage in team battles like this.’

Even the regular experts who are used to camping at major hunting grounds or participating in raids would naturally be less coordinated in large-scale battles.

Especially compared to users who have grown through group activities as a basic condition.

“Are you really going to send them all like this?!”

“Why not?”

“Cough! To think that this is all we have to protect Cardinal Romero! That’s what I’m concerned about!”

The bishop NPC, though angered, unquestionably felt different from before.

‘Initially, I thought he was an incredible person since the ‘dignity’ buff wasn’t effective.’
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In reality, the individual who was overseeing the New Continent’s diocese and mediating the minor conflicts within Juma City was none other than the Bishop NPC right before their eyes. Initially, despite Leeha’s 『Dignity』 buff, he treated them with a certain level of disdain, but now, he was cautious enough to speak formally. This change was all due to the incredible accomplishments Leeha had shown. Along with the slaying of a manticore, the fact that key figures from various knight orders were trying to get on Leeha’s good side had shifted the Bishop NPC’s system recognition.

“Surely, it’s not like there aren’t concerns, but now’s not the time to voice them.”

Realizing this, Leeha nodded with a smile.

“It’s alright, don’t worry.”

“Y-Yes?”

“After all, the five Paladins that came with Cardinal Romero are among the elite.”

Leeha glanced at the five knights surrounding Cardinal Romero. Responding to Leeha’s words, the knights brought their swords to their chests as a salute. Leeha, seeing this, smiled contentedly and then cocked the hammer of Black Bass.

“And then…”

Click!

The sound of a bullet being chambered made the Bishop NPC flinch.

“With me here, no enemy will come close enough to bother us, so don’t worry.”

“It’s not that we doubt you, but… Should anything happen to the Cardinal, our theocracy—”

Boom!

A Two-Headed Ogre’s chest vanished with a loud explosion.

“What was that? I didn’t catch it.”

Click!

The sound of the gun being reloaded.

“No, nothing at all.”

The Bishop NPC’s anxious expression had vanished. Leeha returned his focus to the scope.


“It seems handling the monsters won’t be much of an issue. Koma and Blaugrunn are also giving their all… Should be done in under three hours?”

While all showcased impressive skills, Leeha noticed discernible differences in combat ability among the groups.

“Hmm, as expected of Sacred Knights.”

Their white glowing halos and pure white cloaks. Their cloaks seemed unstained by blood. Led by Shin Nara, the Sacred Knights, Fibiel’s Capital Defense Knights, were overwhelmingly pushing back large monsters.

“Kay, Hyein, and Bobae’s combination seems pretty good lately. Kijung might be a bit jealous.”

Next, there was Byulcho.

Their past focus on elite numbers shone through at moments like this. Since the guild was well-coordinated, their division of members and link-up play were impeccable. Among them, Hyein and Bobae caught Leeha’s attention.

With Mass Blink, Hyein could instantly move close to targets, and Bobae, from any position, could precisely shoot arrows to their destination. Teleporting to a good vantage point to target the nape of large monsters, Bobae would swiftly fill it with various arrows, quickly eliminating nearby monsters.

Then there were Kijung, Tale, Biyemi, and Jin Gonggong, none of whom were ordinary.

“Kijung, that guy, not even sharing his ‘Strengthening’ results. But he’s definitely improved.”

While typical knights of knight orders and their tank NPCs would generally avoid monsters’ attacks as much as possible, within Leeha’s scope, Kijung alone was withstanding attacks from five huge monsters.

Without dodging, facing them head-on, holding only his shield.

Once he successfully drew the aggro, Biyemi’s debuff skills hit the mark! Tale, grabbed by Jin Gonggong transformed into a Golden Eagle, was bombing from the air.

The added velocity of Tale’s flaming sword thrust was perfectly aimed, exploiting the monsters’ weak points flawlessly from their blind spots.

“And then… it’s them, isn’t it?”

While other knight orders were certainly strong and spectacular, there was one group that caught Leeha’s eye. Not for the cleanliness of the Sacred Knights or the ingenious efficiency of Byulcho, but for their sheer ‘brilliance’, a knight order that in no way fell short.

“Anyway, since I don’t fully understand swordsmanship or knight skills, I guess I’ll never really know. But what in the world is that?”At least, Leeha was familiar with styles that involved cutting down an adversary with brute strength or swiftly slicing through them in an instant with a rapid blade.

However, the movements before him seemed to have no relation to either speed or power, leaving him at a loss for words.

The only sensation Leeha could ascertain was that it was ‘spectacular’.

Every swing of the sword left a vivid afterimage, and the fact that these afterimages were rainbow-colored seemed almost expected.


“The ‘Knight of the Rainbow’… just as literal as it gets. Even their knights’ skills are quite formidable.”

The Virtuous Knight Order was valiant. The attacks of the Sacred Knight Order mainly consisted of a combination of magic and swordsmanship.

One strike and one block. This clean execution was why Leeha considered them ‘neat’.

But Virtue was different. To Leeha, their approach felt nearly underhanded.

“All they do is attack?”

Strike once, then twice, thrice, and a fourth time? In other words, it was an overwhelming offensive that gave no chance for the opponent to counterattack or even find an opening. However, Leeha’s first impression was that it was ‘sneaky’.

Leeha: Kijung, see that, Lark?

Kijung: Yeah. Can’t help but watch even if I didn’t want to. What’s with that?

Leeha: What even… You don’t know?

Kijung: By the looks of it, probably a tanking class, and since it’s ‘Knight of the Rainbow’, the job’s likely a Knight. But I’ve never seen such skills.

Kijung also couldn’t quite figure him out. Leeha promptly sent a whispered message to Shin Nara, but she was similarly clueless. The difference was her judgement of his movements.

Nara: It’s slower than I expected.

Leeha: Slower?

Nara: Compared to me. It might seem fast to Leeha-ssi.

Leeha:… So, what do you think, Nara-ssi?

Nara: Not a strength-based or agility-based type, yet with such attack power… There’s only one thing I can think of.

Hearing Shin Nara’s words, something briefly dawned on Leeha as well.

Leeha had invested heavily in agility, and his attack power with a musket was indeed not weak.

But what was essential for Leeha to fully exhibit his skills?

Leeha: Could it be the weapon?


Nara: That seems like the right guess. A typical knight order would have a unified swordsmanship technique. For users, it means skills. Skills that are secrets passed down within the knight order. But only that guy has a sword that sparkles like a rainbow. If it were a skill, then all knights around him would have it too.

Shin Nara was thinking about the weapon Lark held. Leeha agreed with her theory.

Shin Nara used a rapier, designed for thrusting, but there were times when her movements or skills overlapped with those of the Sacred Knight Order.

Her unique fencing techniques added to create a distinctive offense and defense system.

“Indeed. Then, even on the lower end, it must be of legendary quality. No, maybe even more… potentially, ‘Mythical’.”

Considering that Kijung, holding a legendary sword and a specially enhanced shield, doubted his chances in a 1:1 fight, it was a significant thought.

“Damn, if someone wielding a mythical sword causes a disturbance—”

Leeha once again surveyed Lark through the scope. His swordsmanship neither felt swift nor heavy. Yet, those ordinary movements effortlessly sliced off the limbs of giant monsters. For Leeha, who could even discern facial expressions, the effort Lark put into his strikes seemed less than what one would use to cut through tofu.

“If we bring Blaugrunn into this, we might be able to stop him but…”

“Excuse me? What did you say?”

“Ah? Nothing important. Just keep taking good care of the Cardinal, bishop-ajussi.”

“Bishop-ajussi? Even though I am from the Ezwen Church—”

Leeha paid no mind to the NPC bishop’s words.

To involve Blaugrunn in stopping this? If by a one in a thousand, or even one in ten thousand chance, that sword cuts through Blaugrunn?

Even dragon scales aren’t invincible. No one knows this better than Leeha.

Considering that Blaugrunn, albeit closer to an adult than a juvenile dragon, could potentially be cut by a ‘Mythical’ item—

“Mythical items can even resurrect dead NPCs. Since bringing Blaugrunn back was an Easter egg from the myths. The opposite assumption is entirely plausible. With a mythical weapon… killing a dragon would pose no challenge.”

“Damn it, he looks like trouble. Should we just shoot him here?”

But there were too many eyes watching.

And the sound of gunfire was enormously loud. If a monster with an attack pattern similar to Black Bass was nearby, they might have been able to pretend it was something else, but otherwise, it was clear that all eyes would be on them.

“Still, if it’s a one-shot kill, it doesn’t matter, right?”

If they could achieve instant death… the attacker’s notification system would pop up before the guy could log out.

Leeha aimed at Lark’s head.

Lark had just slashed through a Two-Headed Ogre’s heads in a single swing.

As soon as he landed, he was about to launch another attack when his head whipped back, looking up at the sky.

“Huh?”

Lark pointed towards the sky.

His mouth moved, saying something, but Leeha couldn’t hear it from where he was.

However, at his shout, all the nearby knights looked up as well.

“What’s happening, all of a sudden?”

“Ah, aaaah… That- Those are surely not…”

Leeha, who had been focused solely on the world through his scope, was naturally the last to notice them.

It was only after hearing the bishop’s scornful voice that Leeha took his eye off the scope.

“Leeha-nim. Enemies are approaching. You have about 20 minutes left.”

“Hyung!? Hyung! What’s that!? Can it be that?”

“Leeha-ssi! In the sky! Up in the air!”

“Leeha-nim? The path to the Divine Staff is twisting! Something is here!”

Kijung, Shin Nara, and Fernand, who had been moving to find an alternative route just in case, all messages came in simultaneously.

But Leeha couldn’t focus clearly on those voices.

“This is insane…”

Divine Staff might have been beyond his scope, but it was visible enough through it.

Those darkening the sky as they flew. Those shaking the ground as they ran.

They were unmistakably minions of demons.

When the ground started to shake slightly, as if a minor earthquake had occurred, making the land near the Divine Staff tremble, their leader had already entered Leeha’s scope.

“…Toon…!”

A host of Manticore among other flying monsters, and a horde of massive beasts. Leading them was Toon.

The distance between the vanguard engaged in combat and the Divine Staff was about 400 meters. The distance from the Divine Staff to Toon and the others was roughly 1,000 meters.

“My Lord… Haven’t You led us to the Divine Staff?”

The bishop NPC knelt, trembling.

Even the NPCs who had prayed during every wave were scared enough of the might of these enemies.

“Leeha-nim, what will you do?”

“Huh?”

“Including myself, the guidance to this Divine Staff is now entirely left to Guide Leeha. Even His Holiness has said to prioritize your judgement above all.”

Cardinal Romero asked Leeha.

This was an unusual way of speaking to Leeha. The fact that they were leaving it to his judgement didn’t feel like a mere shirking of responsibility.

It was a genuinely earnest question.

Was there ever such a kindly grandfatherly NPC before?

‘Especially compared to Bahamut’, Leeha thought, as he wiped his nose.

“Tsk, when you put it like that, there’s only one answer, isn’t there? And if the Divine Staff is gone-”

Then he pulled the trigger with a smile.

“Ghibrid will awaken. Why don’t you go ahead and pray? We need to reach the Divine Staff before those creatures.”

Click-!

The preparations for battle were complete.

All that was left was to see who would reach it first.
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『”Was it stuck in such a place? It’s true what they say—it’s darkest beneath the lamp…”』

Toon ground his teeth.

His anger was evident to the point that even Chiyou, who sat on his shoulder, flinched.

“At least we found it now, which is fortunate.”

『Hmm. Thanks to you.』

Toon’s voice softened.

『You discovered the location quickly and got the information right. … Well done.』

“Don’t mention it.”

Chiyou replied in a nonchalant tone.

“After all, we’re in the same boat. Working together under the Count, it was only natural.”

Chiyou looked Toon in the eyes and smiled brightly.

Even though one of his eyes was larger than her entire body, she showed no fear.

As Toon had mentioned, it was she who had inquired about the information regarding the “Divine Staff” and precisely pinpointed this location.

‘Thanks to overhearing Bluebeard’s chatter. Nevertheless, I’ve scored a point, haven’t I?’

The reason she was able to specify this location was entirely due to her keen insights.

Using the members of Shinobigumi and all the information networks on the Old Continent, it would have been almost impossible for anyone else to know of this operation.

It was carried out in utter secrecy, and even Leeha had not disclosed the location initially.

Yet, the reason she could pinpoint the location of the “Divine Staff” was because of something Bluebeard had said at Ghibrid’s resting place.

―The Manticore is dead?

‘How could a well-flying Manticore suddenly die? Didn’t they say there was no human presence where the Manticore was?’


Manticores not only created chimeras but also acted as Ghibrid’s eyes and ears!

So, just before its death, it had conveyed information to Ghibrid, which Bluebeard had heard from him.

‘I don’t know how they communicate… but that’s not important. The key point is an ambush in a place with no signs of life, resulting in a death with a single strike. Only one person in Middle Earth can manage that.’

Ha Leeha.

Chiyou was certain that Leeha was the one who killed the Manticore.

From that point, she unfolded the map and traced the source of demonic energy close to the Manticore’s death location, and with the help of Bluebeard and Ghibrid, she and Toon finally arrived here.

What should have taken even the keenest users more than a day, Chiyou had accomplished in just a few hours with tremendous drive, so it was natural for Toon and Bluebeard to raise their opinion of her.

“Excuse me, Chiyou-ssi! What should I do now?”

A voice interrupted Chiyou’s thoughts as she was wondering what more she could extract from them in the future.

Seated on Toon’s shoulder, she looked down towards her feet.

The White-Eyed Spiritualist, Prea, was clinging tightly to Toon’s ankle, looking up at Chiyou.

‘Tch, I didn’t want to include her… But given that Ha Leeha is around, her power is essential.’

Since Prea had revealed her true intentions, Chiyou had distanced herself from her. Consequently, Prea tried even harder to approach Chiyou amicably.

‘I’ve heard about the existence of a dark-attribute spirit. I don’t know its name, but considering its existence has been revealed, there’s no better place than a demonic territory to increase its affinity.’

Chiyou had a rough idea of Prea’s intentions.

Although she disliked the thought of Prea gaining more power, there was no choice.

At the very least, to neutralize one of Leeha’s major forces, the ‘Burning Bear,’ Prea’s power was indispensable.

“Can you prevent humans from approaching the ‘Divine Staff’?”

Chiyou asked, concealing her emotions.

“Prevent them from approaching?”


Prea continued staring at Chiyou with a slightly innocent expression.

“Hmmm… Prevent them from approaching? It’s not particularly difficult, right?”

The White-Eyed Spiritualist rubbed Toon’s thick ankle with her fingers as she spoke.

Although it seemed like she was talking to herself, Chiyou well knew she wasn’t.

Prea’s words were directed at the spirits listening.

“Nouenan, can you surround that area?”

As soon as she finished speaking, the ground near the “Divine Staff” began to tremble.

『An earthquake? Is this an earthquake?』

“Prea?”

“Yes?”

“Did you do this?”

“Yes, I did as you asked. I prevented anyone from approaching.”

Prea looked at Chiyou and formed a V with her fingers.

Chiyou was utterly flabbergasted. How did she manage that?

“Is it possible to use such a powerful skill with just one spirit?”

“Earth Mage… He couldn’t use an earthquake spell like this either!”

Chiyou quickly regained her calm expression, but Prea was already smiling.

Chiyou then lifted her head again to watch the front.

“It’s nice with Noeanen, but still, at times like these, I miss the guys from Noes Leeha~.”

Prea also playfully tapped the shoulder of the spirit beside her with a mischievous voice.


“If you wish, I can call them immediately.”

“No, no. It’s fine. This should keep rising all the way, right?”

“As you wish.”

As the supreme earth spirit Noeanen bowed her head, the ground near the Divine Staff warped in a circular pattern and rose up.

She already knew why she had been summoned.

To checkmate Leeha’s polar bear.

Although Chiyou hadn’t said much, she had taken care of more than what Chiyou had hoped for her.

“Hehehe, first, let’s set it up like this—”

As Prea smiled with satisfaction, something flashed on the other side.

“Huh? What’s that—”

Just when it seemed an explosion was happening in the air, Prea couldn’t confirm anything with her eyes.

“Powerful energy projectiles. Even one hit can be dangerous.”

Noeanen, the supreme earth spirit, enveloped Prea protectively.

BOOMBOOMBOOMBOOMBOOM────!

By the time the loud noise was heard, a significant number of flying-type monsters in the air were already plummeting to the ground.

“It’s not a single shot attack… but a multi-shot attack that can do this? No, noeanen! Protect yourself first!”

“Don’t worry.”

Stones and pebbles around where Toon’s feet touched the ground gathered and perfectly shielded Noeanen and Prea.

Prea clearly remembered the time when the supreme fire spirit had to return to the spirit realm after a single hit.

That incident was nothing short of a nightmare for her.

Since she had believed it to be “Ha Leeha’s strongest attack skill,” she was naturally startled by the current attack.

“Amazing! A summoner who has contracted with a fire spirit… and even has items related to both dragons and water spirits?”

Suppressing her pounding heart, Prea furtively lifted her head only to realize that Chiyou had already vanished from sight.

It wasn’t only Prea who had shrunk back due to Leeha’s attack.

Chiyou, who had been on Toon’s shoulder, had also hidden behind Toon’s neck along with the loud noise.

Confirming Chiyou’s absence, Prea imagined Leeha beyond the Divine Staff in the front.

* * *

“Phew, I guess I’ve paid my respects! Now if it’s urgent—”

Leeha, who had fired the Multi-Warhead Shot, immediately began whispering.

The unfamiliar loud noise had shocked the entire order of knights, but once they confirmed the falling monsters, their astonishment quickly turned into excitement and admiration.

A skill capable of boosting morale with just one hit!

It was the Black Bass’s Multi-Warhead Shot.

“Ooooohhhhh——!”

“Secure the ‘Divine Staff!’

Don’t be late!”

“Ha Leeha’s got our back! Don’t be afraid and charge!”

The allied knights mostly engaged the monsters on the ground. As knights, most of them fell into the melee job.

The guilds comprised of users were tasked with handling the airborne monsters.

“Bobae! Above—”

SHHUUU—!

Before Kijung even finished shouting, Bobae had already drawn her bowstring.

Leeha’s Multi-Warhead Shot seemed nothing special as one arrow split into several mana arrows spreading around.

“The entire Sacred Knight Orders, take flight! Engage the flying monsters in formation!”

Advanced users skilled in magic directed their gaze upwards too.

The monsters on the ground mostly resembled those they encountered during the wave! Therefore, the priority was naturally to check the flying ones.

“Priority target is the Manticore! Deal with the monsters that create Chimeras first! Be careful not to get stabbed by the tail—”

KA-BOOOOM—!

“―Argh!?”

Even Shin Nara, who was giving orders, stopped in surprise at the tremendous noise.

At the same time, one of the manticores flying from beyond the Divine Staff began to plummet to the ground.

She glanced in the direction where Leeha was and gave a faint smile.

Confident that Leeha was watching her.

“We cannot let ourselves die. But we must not let the Divine Staff fall into their hands. We have one mission to complete.”

Shin Nara swung her sword in the air.

“To secure the Divine Staff, complete the mission safely, and return to the capital! Understood?”

“Yes, dame!”

As soon as the command to obey the Dame was given, the Sacred Knights moved swiftly towards the Divine Staff like they were flying.

In reality, it was not a good strategy.

Without coordinating with other knight orders, they would become easier targets for monsters.

But now was not the time to pick and choose.

With towering giants and massive beasts approaching from afar, those who could still move had to reach the Divine Staff, by any means necessary.

Leeha, observing the Sacred Knights fly past, immediately turned his head and asked.

“Cardinal! How do we secure that? Can just anyone go to it?”

“Of course not. I must reach that place myself.”

“Damn it! So, their effort to get there is all in vain—!”

Rough words spilled from Leeha’s mouth.

Of course, the initial plan was to have the knights clear the monsters, and then the Cardinal would go with them.

But how could they clear the monsters in this situation?

Moreover, right at this moment, ton appeared.

From the perspective of the occupation team needing to secure the Divine Staff, this couldn’t be worse.

‘Dammit, this is when all the top rankers should come together! Why aren’t they here on such an important day!’

If only Alexander or Lee Jiwon were here, it would be enough to draw their attention and time!

Leeha had to make a decision.

Normally, he would step back, but now he couldn’t afford to.

He didn’t know what kind of divine power the Divine Staff possessed, but if Toon tore it apart, everything would be in vain.

“Argh, can’t be helped!”

―Blaugrunn! Bring Koma! The Cardinal and I will teleport to the Divine Staff! Quickly!

―Yes! I remember the coordinates from before!

Leeha immediately whispered.

With only about ten minutes left, Koma wouldn’t be very effective at close range.

So, the next plan?

Where was the force capable of protecting the Divine Staff apart from the flying Sacred Knights?

Fortunately, Leeha knew.

The strongest spatial mage in Middle Earth’s history.

―Hyein! Bring as many star archers as possible to the Divine Staff! I’ll talk to Kijung!

―Uh, what? The coordinates are a bit hard to specify though—

―Doesn’t matter! Just come! If you don’t bring the star archers, we’re all dead!

Schwaaah!

Though Hyein muttered something in a whisper, Leeha didn’t hear it.

Blaugrunn had already returned with Koma by Leeha’s side.

Seeing the suddenly appearing dragon startled the Bishop NPC, but Cardinal Romero had an expression as if he had already expected it and nodded.

“Let’s go.”

“Ha Leeha?”

“Yeah, let’s go! First, it’s five paladins here, me, Blaugrunn, and Koma. Eight people to secure the Divine Staff!”

“Understood! Coordinates confirmed, mana synchronized—”

Blaugrunn stared at the distant Divine Staff.

Within moments, a turquoise mana engulfed his body.

“―〈Mass Teleport〉!”

As purplish light flickered at the far end of the Divine Staff’s occupation team, eight people, a dragon, and a bear arrived in front of the Divine Staff.

“Cardinal! How much time!?”

“Ten minutes should suffice. May our Lord Ahlo once again take an interest in his creations on this earth through the staff…”
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Cardinal Romero knelt beside the Divine Staff, placing his hand upon it. As soon as he began his prayer, a system window appeared before Leeha and the other members of the Order, who were users.

『Cardinal Romero begins his prayer to the Divine Staff.』

『Divine Power is charging in the Divine Staff.』 『Divine Power Charging: 1%』

『During the charging of Divine Power, the Divine Staff must not be touched by demonic energies.』

『If touched by demonic energies, the Divine Power will reset.』

“…This is maddening.”

Leeha couldn’t help but let out a groan.

It wasn’t about breaking the Divine Staff or killing Cardinal Romero…

Merely touching it causes a reset?

Isn’t that literally ending with a TOUCH DO…?

The faces of Leeha and the other users darkened rapidly. Leeha vented his fear in a tirade against the game developers of Middle Earth.

“Damn it! They don’t make anything easy!”

However, there was no other way. All the conditions had been revealed. All that remained was to grit our teeth and defend this place!

“Alright, alright! Let’s do it. If there are no other penalties after charging, and if it’s just about maintaining it for 10 minutes, then isn’t that doable?”

Then?

“You fools, the stone walls you raised will become barriers obstructing you! Blaugrunn!”

Leeha quickly turned to shout behind him.

“Ahead, unleash full force of lightning magic at the flying monsters in sight! Kidd, you protect the Cardinal!”

“Understood!”


“Kyarrrr!”

Boom, boom, boom!

In an instant—

A barrage of lightning magic and Leeha’s bullets soared into the sky.

“Huff—”

Through and through———

One breath, one trigger pull.

Leeha was literally, without a moment’s rest, pulling the trigger and emptying the magazine. In the midst of reloading, shifting the gun’s aim, steadying his breath, and firing! Every movement flowed smoothly like water.

In just about 5 seconds, he managed to shoot 8 rounds.

Given that Leeha was hitting targets that were still 500m away and not wielding a mere close-range rifle, the Paladins and Bishop NPCs who witnessed him striking down 8 monsters were involuntarily shaking.

It was akin to rapid-fire!

A 100% hit rate!

The sight of formidable monsters keeling over one by one was truly spectacular.

However… their astonishment wasn’t solely because of Leeha’s skills.

It was because, despite killing them, the number of monsters charging at them was overwhelmingly large.

Leeha felt it too.

Rapidly changing magazines, Leeha tried to assess the situation around him.

Just the ones charging within 500m were in numbers too great for him to handle.

“Blaugrunn! How is it on your end!?”

“There are so many! I think it might be better to use my breath, what do you think?”


Pssssht—!

Blaugrunn’s lightning magic shot out.

A giant beast, that seemed it could completely shatter the stone wall, trembled and collapsed sideways as it charged.

As the beast fell, it squashed about seven or eight monsters, but that amount was barely noticeable.

“We can’t use that yet! Kidd! You need to take action. Can you run rampant for as long as possible?”

“Kyarrk! Leave it to me!”

Whoosh!

No sooner had Leeha’s words fallen than Koma jumped.

Already levitating next to Leeha and Blaugrunn, Koma dashed past them and immediately charged towards the monsters on landing.

“Damn! Though it doesn’t die, it still feels pain.”

This unreasonable request was something Leeha was not particularly fond of. Koma may possess an outrageous level of power, but that was only when dealing with ordinary monsters. Currently, there was Toon on the other side. The reason Leeha couldn’t concentrate on the giant monster was precisely because of this.

‘The manticore is the more important monster, so taking it down should be the priority! Yes, that’s just it!’

Leeha repeatedly reminded himself of the reason for not engaging with the ground monsters, well aware that it was merely a temporary solution.

The thought of what would happen if Toon came into the scope while he was still aiming at the giant monster was enough to give him a headache. Naturally, it was difficult for him to aim to the ground. This was a frustrating situation for Leeha himself, having to leave the main monster to Koma and Blaugrunn!

“The distance is already 430m, and it’s moving fast. I don’t know who used this stone wall skill… If it can be deactivated at will-”

“Leeha-ssi! The manticore first! We’ll take care of the other flying monsters, so just snipe the manticore!”

“Nara-ssi!”

A refreshing voice hit Leeha’s eardrums! “Why are you standing idle! You know it will be trouble if you slack off!”

Although surprised by the loud volume, the voice announcing the arrival of Shin Nara and the Sacred Knights gave Leeha a boost of confidence.

“Haha, slacking off? I was just thinking for a bit! As you said-”


Leeha raised his sniper rifle. Fortunately, amongst the swarm of formidable monsters, the number of manticores was not very high.

“Okay!”

Boom!

Leeha blew the head off the leading manticore among about ten.

“I’ll start by taking down the manticores!”

“Yes! Sacred Knights squadron, commence aerial operation. We’ll prevent the flying monsters from approaching!”

The Sacred Knights, flying together, quickly dispersed into groups of three. Leeha matched their efforts, sniping down the manticores. Realizing they were being targeted, the manticores tried to hide behind other flying monsters, but they couldn’t escape Leeha’s sight. Whether piercing through them along with a Harpy or blowing off a wing and then revealing their bodies to score a chest shot, Leeha’s sniping was impeccable.

‘Now, four manticores remain- The fact that there are so few of these important monsters, and most of them are just large regular monsters-‘

Ghibrid certainly hadn’t regained his full power yet. The number he could control just after waking up would only be that much.

Boom! Another manticore fell, and at that moment, a change occurred near the “Divine Staff.”

“Damn it… So it could be controlled like this?”

The ground shook again. The stone wall that had encircled the Divine Staff in a complete circle vanished, leaving only a semicircle, turning to dust.

The allies had to go around the wall, while the enemies could charge straight in, creating an environment that was the worst possible situation for defense.

“Ahem, Your Eminence? How much longer will it take?”

『Divine Power Charging: 49.9%』 About five more minutes. The silver lining was that another team of reinforcements had arrived.

Swoosh! Accompanied by a purple glow, elite members of Byulcho landed by Leeha’s side.

“Pfff… I can’t do this a second time. If the coordinates had overlapped incorrectly, everyone involved would have died-”

“Hyung!”

“Kijung!”

Kijung, Bobae, Hyein, Tale, Biyemi, Jin Gonggong. Although only six people, they were like an army of a thousand soldiers to Leeha.

“-You wouldn’t listen to me anyway.”

“Hehe, we just have to do our part, right, Jin Gonggong-ssi? What about the transformation?”

While Hyein shook her head, Biyemi gripped his weapon tightly. In his left hand was his beloved sword, and in his right, a water balloon-like pouch.

“Umm, preventing these monsters from reaching the Divine Staff takes priority over me transforming right now!”

“Is there a way?”

At Jin Gonggong’s words, Tale asked. Bobae looked at Jin Gonggong with interested eyes.

Hadn’t everyone grown through repeated growth during the Wave event? Although Jin Gonggong belonged to the lower levels within the Byulcho, his growth rate was unmatched by anyone.

“Druids are not just limited to using the power of animals.”

The Giant Druid, once ridiculed in online communities, was not the same as before. For a moment, thick light green mana was absorbed into his body!

“Tangled Vine!”

In the source of demonic energy, almost barren, foliage began sprouting at an incredible speed.

“Plant-type skill……”

“Phew, I’ve put in so much mana that I can’t use my transformation skills for a while… I’ll take a short break.”

“A short break! Just rest here for now! Jin Gonggong, you are the last line of defense protecting the Archbishop!”

As Jin Gonggong sat down to start recovering his mana, Leeha shouted excitedly.

Although it had less impact compared to the initial stone walls, the defense it provided was by no means weak.

Around the Divine Staff, plants of about 5 meters in thickness and height intertwined in a semi-circle, creating a barrier difficult to step foot in.

“Good, there’s nothing more to say! We have 5 minutes left! That’s enough time for them to arrive and break the Divine Staff! Let’s do whatever it takes to stop them!”

Leeha pulled the trigger once more while screaming at the top of his lungs. Amidst the sounds of gunfire, users’ skills, shouts, and battle cries, only Hyein looked around with a worried expression.

‘There are 5 minutes left until the Divine Staff is fully charged. But… even if we manage to fill that time, what will change?’

Will it unleash some kind of power that completely repels the monsters and Demons?

If not, the moment Toon arrives, it will be broken even if we risk our lives to protect it.

Hyein had an inseparable worry but didn’t voice it out, knowing it wasn’t the time to demoralize everyone.

『Sacred Power Charging: 61.1%』

230 seconds out of 600 remain.

Despite Leeha’s efforts, feverishly firing the Black Beast until its barrel was hot, the numerical disadvantage was inevitable. The monsters that advanced to intercept began to falter and were pushed back to a distance of 100m.

Except for a few monsters in the front, the distance between Toon and the Divine Staff was only about 140 meters.

‘Damn, there are still almost 4 minutes left. We’ve just barely dealt with the Manticore…’

The Manticore, which Leeha and the Sacred Knights had planned to quickly eliminate, were already wiped out. A significant number of flying monsters that could easily touch the Divine Staff were also dealt with.

‘We’ve managed to extinguish the urgent fire, but there are still many ground monsters left! And on our side…’

The damages on Leeha’s side were not light either.

Koma disappeared when the time was up, and even Blaugrunn, who forcibly gathered mana, was so exhausted that he had to cast paralysis magic and coordinate with the Byulcho.

‘We’ve exerted too much power in a short time!’

“We’re being pushed back! Damn it-”

“Hold on! Keep holding!”

“There’s a limit to holding on! If Toon gets any closer, there’s nothing we can do!”

Bobae’s arrow shot towards Toon, but Toon didn’t even glance in that direction. Bobae’s arrow couldn’t penetrate Toon’s skin. Leeha’s gun barrel cleverly aimed only where Toon was not visible. The act of avoiding the object of fear, between consciousness and sub-consciousness, occurred very naturally. Leeha was aware of his own problem. More so in this situation?

With quite a number of ground monsters remaining, the issue was that we couldn’t keep excluding Toon forever.

If Toon approaches, as Bobae said, we would truly be in a situation where we can’t do anything.

‘How much time is left? Toon… can we stop this bastard? What about the other monsters? The time? The distance?’

The momentum of the monsters charging with Toon was something all experienced users, including Leeha, knew very well.

‘We can’t stop it. Preventing this, as it is… it’s impossible.’

Leeha glanced back, hoping for reinforcements, but still, no response came. Along with that, the agonized screams from the front only grew louder.

Leeha quickly gathered his wits and pulled the trigger three times in succession. The most critical areas got momentarily relieved, but that alone didn’t solve everything.

(To be continued…)
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In the spreading despair, it was Kijung who raised his voice.

“Ugh, damn! Damn! Leeha hyung! Leeha hyung!”

“Why?”

Kijung and Leeha’s eyes met.

“Hyung! You can catch Toon, right? You can shoot it, right!?”

“What? Why all of a sudden…”

Before Leeha could finish speaking, Kijung’s shield began to shine even brighter.

“What are you trying to do!”

Just as Leeha was about to recoil and shout, Kijung was already dashing forward.

“I’m counting on you,-hyung!”

Kijung shouted without looking back.

“Biyemi-ssi! Hyein hyung! Bobae-ssi! Please cover me!”

“Wait, just a minute! Kijung!”

Catch Toon?

We can’t even lay eyes on it, let alone catch it!

But it was too late to stop Kijung who had already dashed out and the movements of Byulcho to clear the way for him.

Leeha was engulfed in a terrible fear.

Then, he felt regret, rising anger, and the fear that dominated his inner self, but his well-trained body was already preparing to shoot from a kneeling position.

A distance that didn’t even need a scope!


“Eagle’s Eyes”

The enormous Toon and players peeking out from behind his shoulders and ankles came into view, almost as if they were right in front of him.

Chiyou and Prea were not seen among them.

“Leeha-ssi! We’ve cleared the flying monsters!”

“Hurry! Go help Kijung… no, no. The Sacred Knights will neutralize the rushing force of the giant monsters first! Block them from breaking through the fence vines!”

“Understood.”

Shin Nara led the Sacred Knights into action.

Three knights of the Sacred Knights used shield magic at the same time, strengthening the shield’s intensity.

The rushing force of the giant monsters was blocked by it.

Relieved, the strategy to crush them was set into motion, showcasing the perfection of Sacred’s tactics.

“But what about Kijung-ssi!?”

Bobae looked around in panic and shouted.

Leeha couldn’t bring himself to answer, but soon, Bobae spotted Kijung struggling among the monsters.

“Kijung-ssi?! Why- no, what… what are you trying to do?”

Bobae’s face contorted before hardening once more.

She appeared ready to dash forward at any moment with formidable determination! But she absolutely must not do so.

After all, she’s an archer! Supporting from the outskirts is when she’s most helpful.

Though the desire to assist Kijung alone boiled within her, Bobae did not show it.

Because she had seen Kijung running forward, and Leeha’s face as he looked at him.

Leeha too noticed her expression, slightly resentful.


But there was no energy to speak twice in this situation. Leeha gritted his teeth.

There was only one way.

“I have to… huh, I have to shoot.”

To catch Toon. I have to shoot.

For Kijung’s sake, if nothing else. Leeha reloaded anew. Kijung and the covering team had already reached the foot of Toon.

2 minutes and about 10 seconds remaining.

The distance between “Divine Staff” and Toon was merely 80m.

Even without Eagle’s Eyes, Toon’s overwhelming size filled the view.

『Has the holy power filled up already? That damned emissary must have arrived.』

“No, it’s not the Pope. They say Cardinal Romero has arrived.”

『Romero? I’ve never heard that name. Is there another human with the same power as that damned emissary?』

Annoyance colored Toon’s face. The fact that Divine Staff was gradually being engulfed in light was visible even to Chiyou’s eyes.

For Toon, who just had to launch a few attacks to disturb it and end everything, the surrounding lowly monsters had become an annoyance upon reaching here.

『Damn it, out of my way!』

He kicked the giant monsters aside and moved forward.

It was a trembling moment even for Chiyou, who was clutching his neck and hidden from view.

“If it’s this distance, Ha Leeha will definitely target Toon-nim. It won’t be easy at all!” 『Ha Leeha?』

“There was once when he aimed for Toon-nim’s eyes—”

『Heheh, I see. So, he’s here too. But, no matter. His power isn’t enough to bring me down.』

Toon laughed confidently. Given that Chiyou was one among those who knew well about Ha Leeha’s destructive power, Toon’s confidence was enough to unsettle her.


‘If it was Bluebeard… he could withstand Ha Leeha’s attack power. But can Toon do it? With his size?’

Despite his tough skin, a larger body means more targets isn’t it?

The target area was much larger and as far as Chiyou knew, Toon was inept at using magic too.

Yet such confidence? It worried Chiyou.

‘Could it be that this fellow is unaware?’

Toon was underestimating Ha Leeha’s strength.

But there was no turning back at this point.

After all, everything was coming to an end. The quest to destroy the 『Divine Staff』 had only 2 minutes left.

‘I just need to touch it. In the worst case, I’ll just leave Toon and run.’

While everyone’s attention was on Toon, she could make her move!

She just needed to imbue it with demonic energy, and that should be no big deal.

‘If Prea cooperates, it wouldn’t be impossible.’

If the wind spirit could just boost Chiyou’s jumping power a bit, she was confident she could move fastest to touch the 『Divine Staff』.

When Toon took one step, then another to close the distance, Chiyou could see a group of humans approaching.

They were close enough that she could make out their faces clearly.

“Master Kay, Hyein, and… Biyemiieeeeeee!”

A player who stirred Chiyou’s emotions to the point of breaking her poker face.

To Chiyou, Biyemi was ranked number one among ‘the most infuriating users’.

“Keke, as expected, you came. As much as I would love to mash that ugly face again—”

Biyemi dodged an ogre’s attack by spraying acid to the side. The elbow of the ogre, which had swung its club, had melted away.

“Key, this is as far as we go.”

“This is enough! Please, just block the surroundings, I’ll handle Toon.”

Kijung raised his shield. Kijung, about 185 cm tall, and Toon, nearing 44 m, faced each other.

“Ugh! Can I really block this? If only Ha Leeha hyung would step in sooner!”

『How pitiful. If the spearman and water flea you boast of couldn’t stop me, how could you, merely by yourself, claim to do so?』

A hint of surprise could be detected in Toon’s voice.

“…Ah, you’re mocking Alexander and Lee Jiwon, aren’t you? Water flea, cough, I quite like that… but if those two heard it, you’d have been turned into a giant chicken skewer by now.”

Kijung feigned nonchalance.

In truth, this face-off scared him, and it was partly to mask his fear.

『Foolish child.』

Toon didn’t take Kijung seriously.

He simply stretched his arm back and whipped it forward like a lash.

“Here it comes, jump!”

“Ugh, dodge it, dodge! Everyone, dodge!”

The Sacred Knights and members of Byulcho managed to evade barely.

Toon’s swing did not differentiate friend from foe.

Those monsters that couldn’t escape in time turned to ash instantaneously, prompting Bobae to scream.

“Kijung siiiiiii!”

“Uaaa, Ha Leeha hyuuuuung! I’m really counting on you!”

With his shield upfront, Kijung raised his sword.

『Sacrifice』!”

“Argh!”

“My, my eyes—”

『Khhhhhm!』

A flash resembling a flare erupted from Kijung’s sword.

When the light faded, and everyone opened their eyes, the gathered users could hardly believe their sight.

“K, Kijung? What happened…”

“Whoo, whoo, I can’t last long! Quickly clear the surrounding monsters and- pour everything you have!”

Toon’s arm was stopped right before reaching Kijung. But Kijung, too, was merely trembling, unable to move any further.

It seemed as if both Kijung and Toon were frozen by some paralyzing skill, merely glaring at each other.

“Hurry and escape, then!”

Bobae screamed, but all Kijung did was bear a warm smile.”

Hehe, this… it’s not that kind of skill. I can’t move.”

“Not that kind of skill? Then-”

“Bobae! Let’s talk about this later.”

Kijung shouted as if he was spitting out blood.

“Leeha hyung! Do you see?! Stuff bullets into this bastard’s head!”

However, it wasn’t Leeha who reacted to Kijung’s words, but other members.

“Argh, impossible!”

“No, it can’t be!”

『Sacrifice』! Are you talking about that 『Sacrifice』? Oh, my God!”

“Could it be-! 『Sacrifice』? How could this happen!”

『Sacrifice』! The- the Paladin training we heard about, not about the legendary 『Sacrifice』 that stopped the 5,000 Demon King’s Army all by itself in the past, right?”

“It’s the second coming of the Paladin! The second coming of the ‘Nameless Paladin’!”

The Paladin NPCs and Bishop NPCs shuddered as they looked at Kijung, their faces flushed with a more profound astonishment that bordered on a hymn of emotion.

However, Leeha and Kijung had no leisure to enjoy listening to them.

“Hurry! It won’t last even a minute!”

Indeed, his sight was quickly darkening.

『Legendary Sword of the ‘Nameless Paladin’』

Description: “I’ll hold them off, so quickly evacuate the citizens.”

The Nameless Paladin had shouted.

“How do you plan to stop the enemy with just a broken sword and no shield?”

the princess asked.

“I do not worry. If I sacrifice my body, our Lord will be with me”, he said.

He had stood against the advance of 5,000 demons alone during the First Demon War, buying time for the citizens to flee, and was posthumously honored as the guardian saint of the Ahlo Church.

It’s said that the Demon Army Commander and the Nameless Paladin stood face to face without attacking or defending for a long time.

Additional effect: Upon reaching more than 2,500 Constitution,

Skill – Sacrifice acquired

“Ha, ha…”

Leeha’s gun was pointing at Toon’s head.

From that moment, his breathing became unstable. Leeha was fully aware of Kijung and Toon’s condition.

This skill is about to end.

Then… Kijung will die right there.

You have to shoot, Leeha. You have to shoot. You have to!

Pulling the trigger would end everything.

“Leeha-nim! Hurry!”

Multi-Warhead Shot are currently on cooldown, and there’s no effect like the past mana vaporizing shot?

What does that matter now!

What’s important is Kijung has completely stopped Toon’s movements, and by emptying the magazine towards the immobile dinosaur’s head until it falls, that’s all that’s needed!

Won’t die from one shot? What about two? Three? Just keep firing until it falls.

It was perfect.

Only needed to move the finger.

The trigger, feeling only slightly heavier than a rifle, just needed a pull to end it all.

However, the index finger did not move.

“Damn it, why in such a moment can’t my finger move!

“Leeha-nim!? The big monsters are too much to handle! Just- if you just take down Toon- if Toon goes down, these creatures will retreat on their own!”

“Kijung is dying! Hurry up!”

“Kikik, no way- surely Leeha-nim isn’t saying he lacks confidence from this distance…”

“Leeha-nim! Shoot! If Kay really has Toon tied down- we might even send you flying over Toon’s head! But there’s no need to take that risk!”

Nara, Bobae, Biyemi, Hyein raised their voices, but Leeha’s stance only trembled.

Just needed to move the finger. Just shoot to hit.

The ailment of Leeha’s heart was not so simple.

His mind was entirely focused on the next scene Toon would create.

What if he fails to shoot?

The skill Kijung used would break, and he would rush over, tearing everyone here to pieces or trampling them into mush.

The divine staff would just break, and this mission would end then and there.

“Urgghh—-! Hurry! We can’t hold on much longer!”

Kijung’s shout just circled around Leeha’s ears and disappeared.

Now, unable to even properly hear external sounds, Leeha was completely focused.
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The initial light tremors akin to a chill that started off were now spreading as a full-body vibration due to the gradually intensifying delusion.

Across the gun barrel, the face of Toon, with eyes that could hardly move, seemed to completely dominate Leeha.

‘I can shoot. I must shoot-‘

“Leeha-nim!”

“Ah! Blaugrunn-ssi.”

It was Blaugrunn who woke Leeha, who was losing himself in his own mental world.

Blaugrunn had left the front lines where he had been, and as the users screamed in fear facing the giant monsters, he could no longer stay there.

“Stay calm. It’s alright.”

He was the only one present who understood Leeha’s condition.

Blaugrunn placed his tiny hand on the back of Leeha’s hand.

“So what if you fail? If it’s not working, I could turn into a dragon right now and tear Toon apart. Just give the word.”

Hearing words of tearing and shredding in such a cute voice strangely brought a smile to Leeha’s face.

That brief moment of relaxation stopped the tremor in Leeha’s body.

“What kind of improper home training is that? Talk like that and you’ll get scolded by Lord Bahamut.”

“Lord?”

“Well, anyways, thank you. Because of you-”

Whoooosh…

Leeha took a deep breath.

Magazine loaded, gun charged, aimed. Everything was perfectly ready.


Only one step remained before firing.

“I’ve got the confidence. Screw it, it’s just a game anyway.”

Haaaaah…

Leeha’s index finger pulled the trigger.

『Holy Power Charged: 88.33%』

Baaaaaang……!!

A bullet traveling at 830 m/s just to cover a mere hundred meters.

The target should be completely torn up by it before even realizing the bullet was upon it.

If only Leeha had pulled the trigger a bit sooner.

Craaaash…!

What was heard was the sharp sound of shattering.

The rock mass that had somehow clustered in front of Toon’s forehead disintegrated into fine particles and vanished.

“What-”

Certainly, the users on the Demon King’s Army, aware of Leeha’s presence, could not just stand by!

“Well done, Prea! And thanks to-”

Chiyou leaped from behind Toon.

Time remaining 1 minute 10 seconds.

Sylphs clung to her back. Users were momentarily baffled watching Chiyou covering the distance in the blink of an eye.

It took a moment for the users, who had been focused only on Toon, to switch their target to Chiyou.

“This-”


Leeha hurriedly turned his gun.

Chiyou could be shot. She’s different from Toon!

But hitting Chiyou, who had sylphs attached and was rapidly closing the distance with the “Divine Staff” in a gliding motion, was a challenging task.

“Leeha-nim, I’ll block it for you!”

Blaugrunn rushed to cast his spell, but there seemed to be too little time.

One person alone!

A user who had been focusing solely on Chiyou from the beginning instead of the surrounding monsters or Toon executed their masterstroke.

Whooshing through—–

“Argh!? What, what is this!?”

Chiyou’s body suddenly came to a halt mid-air as someone snagged her ankle.

“Hehehe. Surprised?”

“Biyemi-nim? How could you- no, what is this-”

Chiyou frowned.

It was an attack form she had totally not anticipated.

Biyemi-nim’s body was still on the ground. The reason he could snatch Chiyou’s ankle from the air was because his ‘neck’ had extended!

“I didn’t just receive acid poison from the snakes. Hehehe, I thought you would certainly prepare the next move, you.”

“So close-”

At a distance where the grain of the Divine Staff was visible, merely about 20m away, Chiyou turned ashen. But there was no time to heave a sigh of relief.

“Argh, what is everyone doing!? This isn’t the time to focus there! Everything’s ruined!”

The arm of Kijung holding the sword dropped to the ground.


With his vision completely obscured, Kijung could not tell from where Toon’s attack would come. 『Well done, Chiyou and the spirit summoner! I’ll finish this!』

Toon raised his arm, which had completely lost energy, and struck down towards Kijung.”

No, no, noooooo——–!”

Even as Bobae pulled the bowstring, they couldn’t stop the dinosaur’s arm. The only thing that could stop the dinosaur’s arm at this moment was a gunshot that suddenly rang out, loud enough to drown out Bobae’s screams. Despite the noise, a few users with good hearing caught a very faint voice just before the gunshot, saying, “Ice Age: Mana Pool Charging.”

“Ice?”

“Ice Age! It’s Ram Hwajung!”

As users cheered, they watched Toon’s arm, which had been swinging like a whip, freeze solid.

“What? What’s happening? Why is Ram Hwajung here?”

Though Kijung, the victim at risk, couldn’t quite grasp the situation due to blurred vision, the happy voice of Bobae and the mention of Ram Hwajung allowed him to roughly guess what was going on.

『An ice mage!? At this level…』

Toon frowned. It wasn’t just a hand or forearm that was frozen, but all the way to the shoulder—a powerfully potent spell!

Though he completely lost control of one arm, Toon was still complacent. After all, Ram Hwajung had used all her mana to freeze only one arm, and that too, an arm that Kijung had weakened by using 『Sacrifice』 to drain its power.

Toon still had his other arm, and besides, a simple yet effective headbutt was among his remaining options.

“Ram Hwajung, I’ll thank you later!”

“Sorry I’m late. Oppa. Quickly.”

The person who whispered to Leeha right after the battle began was Jachung. Leeha, who had been continuously checking the friend window to call for help, had asked Jachung to quickly summon Ram Hwajung.

Although Leeha couldn’t assess the situation precisely, it was clear that Jachung wouldn’t refuse Leeha’s request. After all, if Leeha called, Ram Hwajung would hurry over even if she was shopping.

『Holy Power Charging: 93.33%』

“What about Ha Leeha’s attack?! The one just shot—”

“It missed. Please quiet down for a moment, Blaugrunn.”

Leeha knew that the shot had missed. It was aimed at the head, right between the eyes. But at the moment of firing, Leeha inadvertently tilted the barrel slightly, pulling the trigger. It was a form of natural avoidance dictated by a different fear than a simple mistake.

‘Just need one fatal hit. Shoot, I have about 40 seconds left!’

That’s all that was needed to survive!

Leeha aimed at Toon again, but this time the direction of the gun barrel was slightly different. Although aiming at the forehead, Leeha’s body still wasn’t cooperating, but what about that frozen arm?

『It was fun, nameless paladin.』

Toon raised his remaining arm again. The moment his elongated arm swung, Kijung’s body would shatter into pieces.

“Sacred Knights! Protect Master Kay!”

“Get lost! Get the hell away, you dinosaur bastard!”

Shin Nara hurriedly led the Sacred Knights in a charge. Bobae also tried screaming and pulling the bowstring, but only a few arrows were able to stick into Toon’s frozen arm, unable to inflict lethal injuries with normal attacks instead of skills.

“Activate the joint barrier!”

Shin Nara swung her sword, drawing a diamond in the air. The Sacred Knights’ chant flowed into that diamond shape.

“Hehe, that magic is said to protect the king, but with this number of knights…”

Without a significant number of Sacred Knights gathered, it was difficult to form a proper alignment to combat the surrounding large monsters.

With just four members, including Shin Nara, could they really stop Toon’s attack? There was a time when top tankers like Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Pei Wu barely managed to block such an attack.

Biyemi’s pessimism was entirely justified.

“Die.”

Toon swung his arm. The chilling sound of it slicing through the air reached even Leeha’s ears.

Still aiming for Toon’s frozen arm, Leeha’s forefinger trembled as all effort went into pulling the trigger, yet it wouldn’t move.

Just when everyone thought Kijung’s life was truly in danger, one more user made the same guess as Biyemi.

“This can’t happen!”

Whoosh!

The master of space magic, sage Hyein, had already set the coordinates. Immediately after teleporting beside Shin Nara and Kijung, she tapped the ground with her staff.

“And now, 『Mass Teleport』!”

Pop!

“Waaaaaah-!”

The mere rush of air was strong enough to send Bobae flying 3 meters, but miraculously, there were no victims.

“Haa.. Haa… Hyein-ssi?”

“Hoo, I acknowledge the Knights’ stance on protecting the defenseless, but if Shin Nara-ssi and the Sacred Knights fall, all hope will too. Please keep that in mind.”

Hyein lightly patted Shin Nara’s head and then ran off.

In that moment, Kijung, who suddenly found himself treated as ‘defenseless’, was still looking around, not quite understanding the situation.

“Kijung-ssi!”

“Bobae-ssi, d-do you have a potion?”

“You didn’t bring any potions?”

“No, I… drank them all…”

Bobae’s attempt to rush into Kijung’s arms deflated with his nonsensical response.

However, she couldn’t afford to stay disheartened forever. Toon, whose attack had just failed, began charging in a fit of heightened rage.

『You bugs are so annoying! I’ll make you-』

“That’s right. There should have been no one here.”

Leeha, witnessing Toon’s furious charge, strangely felt a sense of peace.

She couldn’t be sure, but it felt like she was faintly gazing into the essence of the fear she had felt all this time.

『Not even satisfying to crunch-』

Her trembling fingers finally moved.

Twaaang——-—!!

『Gahhh!』

Toon stumbled in his attempt to charge.

Considering the added weight from his frozen limb, any abnormal force applied could easily disrupt the balance of even a 44m-tall dinosaur.

『Ha… ha…!』

Thud, thud- thud—!

Toon finally initiated his last assault.

He no longer had the luxury to perform any minor attacks, including swinging.

『Mystic Power Charge: 97.6%』

“Please, do something, Leeha! Just 14 more seconds- if we can hold out for just 14 more seconds!”

The bishop NPC, unable to even stand properly, urged Leeha on while being supported by a paladin.

Baaaang——! The sound of Leeha firing rang out

once again.

Toon, though stumbling, didn’t completely lose his balance.

Given Toon’s size, even if his frozen arm completely shattered and fell off, the distance of about 100 meters could be covered back and forth several times within 14 seconds.

“Leeha-ssi! Permission!”

Blaugrunn shouted to Leeha.

If he transformed into a dragon, he could block it with a body slam.

Even tumbling with Toon for a few seconds would be enough to halt it!

Leeha was left with no choice but to make a decision.

Now was not the time to hide this.

After calculating the impact of Blaugrunn’s influence and Toon’s charge, Leeha shouted.

“Damn, damn! Alright, Blaugrunn-ssi, transform into a-”

“Whoa—Haha! The fun starts here!”

“-Eh!?”

“What, what’s that?”

Suddenly, a voice came from behind Leeha.

Prea’s erected stone wall was still standing tall, but someone clambered up and leapt down, shouting!

Leeha did not turn her head towards the noise and instead pulled the trigger once more, striking Toon’s arm.

Baaaang——! Cracks began to spreadthroughout the entire arm of ice.

But a few users who were distanced from Toon turned towards the source of the voice.

What caught their eyes was a brilliant 7-colored afterimage.

“Im…

『Knight of the Rainbow』! It’s Lark!”

As Lark ran, the afterimage of his sword flashed in seven colors.

Even with Toon right in front of him, he didn’t slow down.

“I’ve always wanted to join in the fight, dinosaur! Isn’t it cool? Tyrannosaurus?”

『Foolish human-』

Toon, having not yet a chance to experience Lark’s attack patterns, attempted to sweep Lark away with his remaining arm.

Even without previous experience, the abnormal length of the arm and his movements made the attack rather predictable.

“La, Lark-ssi!”

Yet, Lark did not retreat.

Facing the natural-disaster-like attack of Toon, he too swung his sword with all his might, head-on.

(To be continued…)
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“Alright, alright, alright, let’s clash!”

“What’s with this lunatic!”

Leeha was taken aback. Was he completely unaware of how formidable that attack was? Regardless, the thought alone was enough to make Leeha forget his own terror for a moment.

Leeha quietly pulled the trigger. At the same moment, Lark’s sword, as loud as thunder, charged towards Toon as well. When the two attacks collided, the shockwave sent Leeha tumbling backwards. The smell of gunpowder wafted from Black Bass’s barrel.

『Ahhh—-』

When dust settled and he reopened his eyes, what the users found was a brilliant light. Countless ice shards glittered as they reflected the sunlight. It was Toon’s arm that had shattered. Ji-jung had blocked and Ram Hwajung had frozen it, and now Leeha had finally broken it!

However, there was no time to be shocked that Toon’s arm had shattered. The real astonishment lay elsewhere.

“Whew, whew- impressive indeed.”

Had losing an arm slowed down his attacking speed?

Toon’s other arm, which he swung, couldn’t inflict any damage. It was blocked by Lark, the Knight of the Rainbow.

“Alone?”

“It can’t be- he blocked Toon’s attack all by himself?”

“Even Alexander couldn’t do it, how could this man…”

“Ah, wait, wait. We’ll ask what you mean by ‘this man’ later. It certainly sounds like the treasure voice of a rare jewel.”

Lark answered, giggling without even looking around. It meant he still had the luxury to laugh. Toon, having lost an arm and his attack blocked, staggered backwards.

『Where did this guy come from-』

“Phew, the hero always appears later, you know. In the same sense, it means you, Toon, are not the hero. Isn’t it about time you disappeared?”

Leeha didn’t know whether to admire or be infuriated. Clearly, the skill was remarkable, but the way of speaking, somehow logical yet infuriating, was something he just couldn’t get used to.

Luckily, Lark’s constant babbling was effective. It was enough to completely distract Toon, already shocked by the loss of his arm and his attack being blocked, without a moment’s rest.


During the remaining time, there was no way to focus on 『Divine Staff』. 『Saint Power Charged: 100%』 『Cardinal Romero’s prayer has reached the heavens.』 『Divine Staff has been activated.』 『In 21 days, the Holy Spirit will condense on Divine Staff.』

The notification only briefly caught the users’ eyes. A beam of light shot up to the sky from Divine Staff, and in response, a cascade of light showered down on them.

“Wow… All debuffs removed, and health and mana fully restored?”

Open character windows to check HP and ■status, users clicked their tongues. God indeed knew how to love his creations who rely on him.

『Khua, kueeeee…』

“Hah-ha! Trying to run away? But you know we can’t just let you go easily, right?”

With his mystical creatures lifted, Lark charged at Toon. If the power used to block Toon’s arm swing was converted to attack, Toon would undoubtedly be in trouble. Especially since one of his arms had been completely smashed by Leeha’s attack.

Users watched Lark with eager eyes, but Lark couldn’t continue his next attack. The form of the dragon began to blur and fade away.

『Divine Staff… must… 』 As if a hologram was disappearing, Toon’s form simply vanished. All that remained was an illusion in Toon’s shape.

“What?”

When had he started preparing it? Until the attack on Lark, he was definitely the ‘real body’. Then, when had he prepared his illusion? Right after the attack failed? Or when Divine Staff was activated?

“Hey, over there!”

Toon’s true form was already running away in the distance.

“What? It can use illusions too?”

“Wow! And so secretly?”

“That’s ridiculous! It’s unfair for something with such a big size to use illusion magic without anyone noticing!”

“If that thing can use illusion skills too, it’s going to be a problem during the real raids.”

Users clicked their tongues in disbelief when Leeha was able to grasp the gist of the situation.

‘Elizabeth had clearly said it. There’s no need for mana evaporation bullets. That guy doesn’t have any skills. Magic doesn’t make sense either. Then, there’s only one person who could be behind this.’

A figure that others hadn’t thought of appeared in Leeha’s mind.


“No, it’s not magic. Blaugrunn, you didn’t feel any mana, did you?”

“Ahh, yes. I didn’t feel any mana, but-”

“It must be a spirit.”

Prea, the spirit summoner with the white eyes. Leeha was convinced this was her doing.

“Mystical creatures? How is that possible with mystical creatures?”

“Is there such a thing as an illusion spirit?”

The users momentarily tilted their heads in confusion.

Leeha did not provide a special answer. The principle behind creating illusions isn’t that complicated.

If she had properly used the mystical creatures of light and water, it would have definitely been possible.

‘So, she can even control the mystical creatures of light.’

He had seen her with the mystical creatures of fire, wind, and earth. Including water and now light… Does that mean she’s adept enough to summon illusions?

‘How many mystical creatures can she control?’

Leeha briefly imagined Prea tiny in comparison, perched atop Toon’s foot.

“No, no, wait a moment! What are you all thinking so seriously about!?”

“Kijung?”

“Hahaha, it seems like there’s a misunderstanding! We’ve won, you know! We’ve won! Coming to the New Continent! For the first time! After always being on the defense against the Demon King’s Army, always losing! For the first time!”

Kijung pointed to the “Divine Staff” with his shield.

“We’ve finally occupied the source of the demons!”

His excited voice spread quickly around him. Toon had run away, and the large monsters had been mostly dealt with.

“As he says. We’ve finally taken the first step in spreading the will of the great Ahlo here.”


Romero nodded with a kind smile.

Cheers erupted energetically.

The users began to shake with excitement, releasing their thrill and goosebumps freely.

Securing the first step for the sanctification had been a close call, but it was neatly done in the end.

『Sanctification』

Objective: 1. Secure the Divine Staff within the New Continent of Erika in 15 days.

2. Protect the Divine Staff for 21 days after securing it.

Bobae finally ran to Kijung and hugged him.

Hyein let out a long sigh, sitting down. His gaze was directed towards the Sacred knights.

Shin Nara, who had been about to rush to Leeha, couldn’t help but stop.

“Leeha…”

While everyone was shouting in joy, Leeha couldn’t entirely join in.

‘Damn! It could have all been over if we had made even a small mistake… Divine Staff would have been gone.’

If it hadn’t been for Kijung’s hidden ace, the timely appearance of help from Ram Hwajung, and Lark’s efforts, Toon would have destroyed the Divine Staff.

Shooting with a frozen arm was already difficult, but what if a truly critical battle came? What then?

Today, it was fired. Somehow it was fired.

However, without completely shaking off the fundamental fear toward Toon, Leeha bit his lip, realizing there wouldn’t be a ‘true victory’.

“So… you came here without using spatial movement?”

『We were concerned about mana tracking. Please, kill me, Count.』

Toon prostrated on the floor, apologizing.

Though unstable in a kneeling position due to missing an arm, Bluebeard didn’t even bother to look directly at Toon.

‘I always thought it was just a playful character, but it’s quite frightening.’

Standing slightly away from such NPCs, feeling awkward, was Prea.

Caught between action and inaction after Chiyou’s death, she had ended up here by inadvertently stepping(?) on Toon’s foot.”

Huff… if I had intended to kill you so easily, I wouldn’t have bothered granting you such precious strength, would I?”

『”That’s right-“』

“What do you mean, ‘that’s right’, you dumb dinosaur brat!”

Before Toon could finish speaking, Bluebeard figure had already moved above Toon’s head. Swinging his staff, Bluebeard struck the back of Toon’s head. Though it seemed a light hit, the sound began to reverberate throughout the entire cave.

『”Cough-!”』

“Didn’t I tell you we need to awaken Ghibrid as soon as possible? At this critical moment, when we should be advancing the ambush disguised as the 4th wave, sooner rather than later- and what? You couldn’t even break that cursed staff? Even though we have to gather ‘roots’, it will still take two months, you idiotic thing!”

Whack! Whack! Bluebeard’s thrashing didn’t cease. Prea, watching from the side, flinched and stealthily summoned a spirit, knowing that if even a spark flew her way, a single hit could end her due to the torment Toon was undergoing.

“What’s this? I smell a disunited household.”

Therefore, Prea had to prepare. She needed a way to escape unnoticed or distract Bluebeard in case of an emergency. However, that very act caught Bluebeard’s attention. Their eyes met.

“Ah, what? Me?”

It was impossible for Bluebeard not to notice the summoning of the spirit. Picking up his hat that had fallen while striking Toon and placing it back on his head, Bluebeard approached Prea.

“It smells like a disunited household. The stench effused by those Ifrit lackeys. Ignis- no, no. Selena. So, you’re a spiritualist.”

What Prea had prepared was to summon Selena invisibly. Bluebeard had caught on through the smell alone.

“I’m Prea.”

“Chiyou… I knew you were around her. Yes, I remember seeing you at the fortress.”

When Bluebeard mentioned Chiyou, Prea saw his cheeks twitch slightly. Although Chiyou had contributed significantly in confirming the location of the 『Divine Staff』, from a consequentialist viewpoint, to Bluebeard, Chiyou was in ‘the same position’ as Toon. Essentially, at this point, a clear failure.

Chiyou, having reconnected after the death penalty, how badly will she be treated by Bluebeard? If Biyemi knew this fact, lizardia would have been smiling broadly for hours. In Bluebeard’s view, given the system, Chiyou’s perception had deteriorated to this extent.

Prea, just by observing Bluebeard’s expression, could discern that fact.

“That’s correct. Even with my modest strength, I am aiding Chiyou.”

Bluebeard momentarily paused at Prea’s address, which lacked any honorifics.

Carefully lifting her head, it was unclear whether Bluebeard’s expression was one of amusement or contemplation, but Prea made a bold decision nonetheless.

Snap! With a flick of her finger, mystical creatures appeared beside her. Bluebeard, observing their presence, couldn’t help but burst into laughter.

“Noeanen? Selena with Celestine, elerestra! Puhahahat! What’s this? I see. So that’s why formal titles were unnecessary.”

Selena, the supreme fire spirit in a flaming skirt. Noeanen, a muscular, macho supreme earth spirit. Celestine, the supreme wind spirit lying in a slanted pose with a cheerful smile. And Elerestra, the supreme water spirit with a pure face and hands politely joined together. All were top-grade spirit of the four elements.

“There are a few more interesting things besides this.”

“Hmmmm… You must have wished and hoped for Chiyou’s disappearance, looking forward to this day.”

“Not exactly. Hehe, but this kind of thing is fun, isn’t it?”

It was natural for a being like Bluebeard. At least, in the eyes of a Demon King’s Fragment, in terms of combat power or rarity, Prea’s power was regarded higher than Chiyou’s.

“Kukuku, borrowing the power of mystical creatures, yet not seeking to receive my power. Nor aiming to gain the power of demons, why stick around Chiyou? The Ifrits and Sylphids would throw a fit if they knew.”

Yet, not revealing one’s true capabilities and remaining quiet until now, what did that mean? Bluebeard was an NPC capable of instantly discerning the efforts of a spiritualist trying to approach him.
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“Seriously, everyone told me going on deployment wasn’t a big deal, that once I heard the operation plans, I’d be itching to go. Do you have any idea what nonsense they dragged me into? That darn division commander—”

Miyaw, the boyish face contorted into a barrage of coarse insults, continued his tirade, impossible to ignore.

His delicate appearance was a stark contrast to his profanity-laden speech.

It’s one thing for a warrant officer, but stirring up a storm with a general?

‘I remember Sergeant Kim hated insubordination the most… And yet, wasn’t he the one who would always come down hardest on the dongsaengs, even for fights among trainees from just one cohort apart?

Listening to Sergeant Kim curse worryingly loud, attracting unintended attention from passersby, he finally calmed down and turned to me.

“Phew, sit down here. So, can you still not shoot that dinosaur bastard?”

“Yes. What?”

Seeing Sergeant Kim after a long time was a reminder that some things never change. I was momentarily confused by his question. How could he possibly know about our mother-son conversation?

“Again, poker face! I must have told you, a sniper who can’t assess the situation is as good as dead. How do you think I knew about that? Answer in 3, 2, 1—”

“Last time! You must have heard it last time. I was sitting on that bench over there talking to Kidd.”

Pushed into a corner, the human mind can conjure responses unimaginable under normal circumstances.

Indeed, my spur-of-the-moment reply was accurate.

Miyaw, with his idol-like features, nodded approvingly and took his seat.

“Right. But hearing it directly from you is different. Try unwinding a bit.”

“Ummm…?”

“Don’t wanna?”

“No, it’s not that!”

Though the sniper sergeant had been promoted to warrant officer, adapting to that young face still proved challenging for me.


* * *

Leeha recounted everything that had happened since he first encountered Toon. It wasn’t just a list of facts.

Why had ke targeted Toon? Why had it become impossible to target him? And what about the ‘model’ that Leeha couldn’t even aim at now?

What about the oppressive feeling that bore down on me whenever I faced those monsters?

Spilling every thought and imagination was akin to a counselling session.

This harked back to something Kidd had once mentioned about “returning to the starting point”, which, for me, was Sergeant Kim.”

This game would be perfect if it only had cigarettes. Seems like there’s a cigarette-shaped item, but without ‘Nicotin’ lighting up, what’s the point?”

After listening to my entire story, sergeant Kim grimaced before speaking.

“Smoking now, are you? I thought you had quit—”

“Overseas, there’s not much else to do. Stupid stuff. Wish they’d increase the allowance instead of teaching us to smoke all over again.”

Stretching his arms and legs wide, the groaning Sergeant Kim drew my gaze, not just for the sound he made but also for the occasional glimpse of a wagging tail behind the bench.

“Hey, it’s me.”

“Master Sergeant.”

“Master Sergeant, my foot, the discharged guy—”

“Rick, wasn’t it Sergeant Kim—no, warrant Officer Kim who said that a sniper is universally recognized, regardless of where we go? What we’ve learned, what we need to uphold, the rules of engagement and basic combat doctrines. Whether we discharge or not, whether we’re from our country or not, a sniper always belongs to one clan, right?”

“Remembering the rant meant to ‘snipe’ trainees, huh?”

“Sorry? I didn’t catch that?”

“Bloody hell! Anyway, ahem!”

Leeha’s prompt response left Sergeant Kim momentarily stunned, followed by an awkward shift and a stroke through his own—or Miyaw’s—facial scruff.

“From what I’ve heard, you’re quite the celebrity. Should such fame even weigh on you? Just enjoy blasting those dinosaurs.”


“Not that famous really, but being known doesn’t really relate.”

“Why not? To become that known, you must’ve fought plenty, right?”

“People? Well, users and NPCs alike, plenty—…”

Indeed, it was I who obliterated the heads of many users and humanoid monsters during the national crisis.

I was about to mention this lightly with a laugh when, suddenly, I halted. Why had he brought up people out of the blue?

“Sergeant?”

“Why can’t someone who’s fought people shoot them?”

A deep sigh followed.

Despite his youthful, idol-like visage, the sigh carried the weight of a life fully lived.

At least for that moment, miyaw’s face was not what I saw. Instead, I saw the familiar face of the former sniper Sergeant Kim.”

What happened…?”

“What happened is, I realized that there’s a bigger difference between practice and reality than I thought”, he said. Sergeant Kim attempted a smile, but even to Leeha, it looked like a forced act. Without needing to say it out loud, Leeha could understand Sergeant Kim’s experiences. He asked if the person had ever been in a fight. The question was directed at someone who had just returned from a deployment. That person had been promoted. Given the combination of these three facts, there could only be one conclusion.

“It must have been tough.”

Shooting real people, not just avatars in a game. Leeha was among the trainees who acknowledged Sergeant Kim’s expertise more than anyone. An infallible sniper, even if it was his first time pointing his rifle at a person, sergeant Kim’s shots would never have been clumsy.

“It was tough. That’s why I came back.”

“Didn’t you return because your deployment ended?”

“If only. Carrying a sniper rifle for 17 years, and being a sniper team leader for 12. Even being the youngest and longest-serving team leader, I couldn’t shake it off.”

“What couldn’t you shake off?”

“Guilt. Like you are now.”

Sergeant Kim met Leeha’s eyes. Only then did Leeha truly understand Sergeant Kim’s heart, having previously thought Sergeant Kim was just sharing his own story after listening to Leeha’s.


“Leeha.”

“Sergeant first class—”

“I told you not to.”

Kim made a motion as if he was going to hit him on the back of the head but didn’t really touch Leeha. Rough as his words were, sergeant Kim had also come to accept the idea that “Leeha is a civilian.”

“Guilt is something you can’t shake off. No matter how skilled, overcoming one’s own heart is difficult. It ultimately makes you doubt your abilities and paralyzes you. Afraid of Dinosaurs, are you? That’s a lie. You aren’t the type to be scared of such nonsense. You’ve been fearless since the day you joined.”

Sergeant Kim laughed heartily. Leeha didn’t argue but simply listened quietly to his story.

“What you’re really afraid of is yourself. The fear is something you created. From the beginning, there was nothing to teach you about sniping because you already knew it all. What am I supposed to do when you’ve joined already perfected?”

Sergeant Kim reminisced about those days. Leeha knew too. The reason Sergeant Kim had been particularly strict with him compared to other trainees wasn’t because of Leeha’s attitude but because there really was nothing to teach him.

“It’s lucky I have something to teach you now, though it’s a shame it’s after we’ve both left the military.”

“I didn’t catch that? The military— oh, didn’t you just get promoted?”

“Promoted, yeah. Honorary promotion upon retirement.”

“Sergeant!?”

Leeha jumped up from his seat, startled. Sergeant Kim didn’t look his way. Was it not a promotion but just an honorary step up upon retirement? Then what was that talk about visiting the division commander earlier? Could it be related to that incident?

“Could it be because of me—”

“Eh? Pfft, buddy! That’s become interesting, hasn’t it? How can someone as shameless as you be so burdened by guilt?”

“Cough, it seems it wasn’t because of me. That’s a relief.”

“Yes. It’s because of what happened during the deployment. Well, since I was going to retire anyway, and since there was also your matter, it’s true I planned to visit the division commander.”

“My matter is just incidental?”

“Heh, then I saw you at the range.”

“At the range, you saw me?”

“With your sloppy shooting form, unmistakably you.”

Sergeant Kim gave a sad smile. Then, suddenly raising his voice, he barked at Leeha.

“250th position, nOW!”

“250th po— DOWN!”

Caught off guard, Leeha instinctively assumed the position. Despite how abruptly and out of the blue it was, Leeha’s prone position, refined through Black Bass, was flawless. Sergeant Kim had a troubled expression on his face where Leeha couldn’t see.

“Look at that. Just like when you first joined. Your shooting stance hasn’t changed one bit, not then, not now.”

“Is that so?”His manner of speaking was as if it was “matchlessly sloppy”, but the nuances were never such. For Sergeant Kim, Leeha, who had been “perfect from the start”, closely resembled a genius.

“Leeha.”

Sergeant Kim called out to Leeha. This time, Leeha did not respond with his rank and name. Sergeant Kim chuckled as he poked at Leeha’s buttocks, who still remained in a crouched position.

“There, now you’re starting to look a bit more like a civilian. Haha, you know how to hit a hundred meters, right?”

“A hundred meters, you say?”

“Might as well not ask. What about two hundred meters?”

“You just told me to aim for two hundred fifty meters, sergeant.”

“Right. So, what about a thousand meters?”

Sergeant Kim looked at Leeha, expecting an answer along the lines of how it’s impossible to hit a target a thousand meters away, only for his expression to collapse upon hearing Leeha’s response.

“I’ve hit at that range here.”

“What, what!? Are you crazy? Then, what about two thousand meters?”

“I have a hit at that distance.”

“You’ve hit two thousand meters?”

“Yes.”

“Three thousand meters!”

“I have a hit at that distance.”

“Three thousand meters? How? With what kind of gun did you- No, no, never mind. Damn it!”

Sergeant Kim, his eyes bulging in disbelief, abruptly stopped himself from asking further and instead burst into anger. He was momentarily undone by Leeha’s unimaginable sniping abilities. Leeha, still in his crouched position, couldn’t help but appear smug. After all, it wasn’t like he could deny his accomplishments.

“Cough. Alright then, let’s change the subject.”

Sergeant Kim seemed to want to say something else, and Leeha quietly listened.

“You know how to swim, right?”

“Yes.”

“Right. If you’ve learned to swim, it doesn’t matter if the water reaches your hips, your chest, or if your feet can’t touch the bottom. Heck, you could even do it in the middle of the Pacific Ocean. Am I right?”

“Yes.”

“And you know how to swim. Right?”

“… Yes.”

“But what happens if you’re too afraid of drowning to even try swimming?”

Sergeant Kim asked. It was then that Leeha finally grasped what Sergeant Kim was trying to convey. Knowing it wasn’t really a question, Leeha chose not to respond. After a moment’s pause, sergeant Kim walked over and sat down in front of Leeha.

“You’d die. A person can drown even in a shallow stream that barely comes up to their knees. Sniping is the same. It’s not the distance that’s scary. I’ve said it numerous times before.”

Sergeant Kim lowered his gaze to meet Leeha’s eyes.

“The target doesn’t waiver. It’s only your eyes and hands that shake. And it’s your heart that shakes your eyes and hands. Shoot. Better to shoot, because not shooting only heightens the guilt.”

The last words came from the lips of Kim, who lowered his posture as skillfully and flexibly as a Musketeer, matching the height of Leeha’s face as he still crouched in readiness.

“Don’t end up like me.”

Leeha was leaning back against a bench under the sunlight. The conversation with Sergeant Kim looped in his mind for days afterward.

‘If you don’t shoot, you’ll end up like me. So, you ultimately didn’t shoot, huh?’

Leeha reflected on Sergeant Kim’s experiences. He had been deployed. Assinged on a critical sniping mission. But actually shooting someone was never easy. Even him, the youngest ever sniper team leader, couldn’t always pull the trigger as he wished.

‘And because he didn’t… what happened?’

(To be continued…)
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Even as a former non-commissioned officer and a veteran, Leeha could not fully grasp the battlefield situation Sergeant Kim had faced during his deployment. After all, that was classified information. However, sergeant Kim’s demeanor alone said enough. The damage that had ensued to their allies because Sergeant Kim did not take a shot at the target in the battle he participated in. It turned out to be a situation where, as Sergeant Kim last said, ‘the guilt only grows deeper.’

‘So he retired because of that. Though they promoted him for his service and merits during the deployment…ultimately, he left due to the guilt. How much must he have suffered?’

After hearing his last words, Leeha had looked at Sergeant Kim for a long while. In such a moment, Leeha couldn’t bring himself to offer any premature words of comfort. Not that Sergeant Kim sought that either.

Shortly after, with a farewell, he logged out, having not added each other as friends, leaving no way to continue their conversation.

It had been three days in Middle Earth time since Leeha last conversed with Sergeant Kim, who had yet to log in since. At least, Leeha, who had been waiting in the same spot all this time, knew that much.

Leeha briefly turned his gaze towards the sunlight piercing through the leaves. The training yard was sporadically studded with straw man targets.

“Did the sergeant spend all day firing his musket here because of that? The guilt of not having pulled the trigger in the end…was he trying to relieve it here, even if just with a musket?”

Not engaging in quests or hunting and still playing in Middle Earth is almost impossible. Except for a few players who made a name for themselves as craftsmen, merchants, or adventurers, it’s pretty much unheard of. In other words, recalling that Sergeant Kim chose to be a Musketeer of the Miyaw race, Leeha’s conjecture was almost certain.

“And to think, headmaster Browless was praising the sergeant back then – the Miyaw Musketeer, right? Considering the sergeant’s level, it must have been their first meeting… And to win Browless over just with his shooting stance? As for sniping, he’s a total game-changer.”

“What are you thinking about, Leeha?”

“Hm? Oh, it’s nothing.”

“You haven’t gone hunting lately! Not even to defend the ‘Divine Staff’! While meeting Leeha’s master is fun, I’m starting to feel restless.”

“Hmm, the Divine Staff… Right, I heard Manticore sightings have been reported intermittently.”

“Yes!”

Blaugrunn’s eyes sparkled.

Leeha had felt how their efficiency in combat had significantly increased during the retrieval of the ‘Divine Staff’.

“The difficulty level was higher than when we cleared the Source of Evil before. Clearing the Source of Evil, defending against waves, the struggle has improved Blaugrunn’s abilities as well!’

The gradual increase in Blaugrunn’s combat intensity was proof of that.

“Alright. Shall we go then? If it’s Manticores you want, that’s exactly what we’ll find.”


“Got it! I’ll prepare the teleport right away!”

Blaugrunn immediately began casting.

Enhancing Blaugrunn’s combat abilities was one thing, but for Leeha, acting in the current situation was crucial.

“The first step is doing what I can. Even if you know how to swim… if you don’t move your feet, you’ll drown in a stream.”

Taking immediate action. The most basic and logical step, yet often easily forgotten.

Leeha was reminded of this once again through his conversation with Sergeant Kim. Listening to the story of Sergeant Kim, who was ‘the perfect sniper’ and a ‘starting point’ for Leeha, could have also been empowering. In a world where even the perfect role models make mistakes and wander, it’s only natural for oneself to make a mistake or two, right?

“Ready.”

“Okay. Let’s go.”

Leeha steadied his breath. Shortly after, they appeared next to the ‘Divine Staff’.

“Leeha!”

“It’s Leeha!”

“Koma is here too!”

The area around 『Divine Staff』 became noisy in an instant.

As soon as they saw Leeha and Blaugrunn, the members of the knight order and the others rushed toward them eagerly.

Blaugrunn greeted them with a pleasant yet displeased expression. He seemed to like the spreading of his fame but was not pleased to be called a ‘little one.’

“Really, why on earth would you call me a little one?”

“It seems they thought I was calling Blaugrunn ‘little one’ when in fact, I was calling someone else.”

The users and members of the knight orders had mistaken the ‘little one’ Blaugrunn mentioned for his own name.

“What’s your relationship with Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Not his son… Haha!”


“Son!? Wait a minute. Do I look that young? Not a nephew or a hyung, but a son?”

Apart from a very few who were aware that Blaugrunn was a dragon, there were quite a few who mistakenly thought he was a user.

Leeha became even more flustered by the users’ shocking remarks.

He had come near Divine Staff to hunt manticores but didn’t expect such commotion.

As Leeha was chatting with the members of the knight orders, one person walked over, yawning, “This is quite the scene. There are folks skulking around over there, and yet the tension’s completely dissolved. Whenever Ha Leeha-nim is present, things always seem to take a strange turn for the better, yet somehow also collapse in odd directions. Is it just me?”

“Don’t overreact when there’s no battle happening. Lord Lark.”

『Rainbow Knight』 Lark and his 『Virtuous Knight Order』 were practically camping near Divine Staff.

While other knight orders had prepared teleportation crystals and magic circles for easy access in case of battles at Divine Staff, the Virtuous Knight Order had set up a supply base level encampment.

Indeed, many were utilizing Divine Staff as a relay point, constantly exploring the area, making it one of the ‘safest’ controlled territories.

Given that many users and members were staying here to prevent an attack on Divine Staff, it was bustling.

Leeha: Blaugrunn, can you check what sword that person is carrying? Blaugrunn: Check what?

Leeha: I mean, check if it has mana or some special feature. Basically, if it feels special.

Leeha whispered to Blaugrunn as he saw Lark approaching him with a swagger.

Leeha was now fully aware of Lark’s capabilities since he had observed them during the battle for Divine Staff. Lark was not an opponent to be taken lightly.

“The linkage of Kijung and Ram Hwajung, and even my attacks to some extent, might not have been normal due to that Toon’s attack. To block it one-on-one…)

His swordsmanship and vigor were not things a mere user could match with their personal strength. The only remaining possibility was the ‘item’ Lark carried possessed overwhelming power.

“I’m quite envious. Where does one acquire such a ‘family’? We have plenty of ‘colorful’ folks on our side. Perhaps you could share a tip or some wisdom?”

Lark glanced at Blaugrunn and spoke to Leeha.

Contrary to what many believed, Lark clearly knew Blaugrunn’s true nature. After all, minis’ territory was known for places where ‘chromatic dragons’ appeared frequently.

“I’m actually curious about how to make the 『Rainbow』 float. If you’re willing to share that information, I’m open to a trade.”


Leeha’s mention of the rainbow made Lark flinch.

However, he remained confident. He did not hide or conceal his sword in any way.

No, perhaps that’s even better acting. If he had flinched and tried to hide or cover his sword, it would have been more noticeable. Lark’s smile didn’t waver.

“I could tell you, but it’d be of no use to Ha Leeha-nim, haha.”

“Perhaps. No, it might be better not to tell. You might end up seeing yourself burned to death by dragon breath.”

To taunting Lark, Leeha responded by winking and sending a smile his way. Lark’s expression contorted ever so briefly, but that was all. With many eyes on them in this place, he was no fool to engage in a blatant quarrel. It wasn’t worth having such a low-level conversation with Leeha, who also had little leisure for it. The reason for the delay was singular; Leeha moved, observing the condition of Blaugrunn. Leeha: Have you finished checking?

Blaugrunn wasn’t following closely behind, as his footsteps were expected to. Leeha paused and looked back. Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi?

Blaugrunn was staring at Lark, who’s smile was subtly rising. Lark: Hmm, this is why I dislike people with quick wits.

Leaving those puzzling words behind, Lark shook his head and turned away, heading back to the Virtuous Knight Order’s camp. Watching him leave, Leeha hurriedly checked on Blaugrunn.

“Blaugrunn-ssi? What’s wrong?”

“I can’t… read it.”

Blaugrunn seemed almost frozen. It was an unexpectedly startling reaction for Leeha to witness.

“What do you mean? What can’t you do?”

“It’s not about being able to read it or not. My mana can’t enter it! It’s not even blocked by a defense spell; it’s as if the sword itself is alive, repelling my mana… What on earth is this? This is a first for me!”

“Leeha-nim! What is that person?”

Blaugrunn suddenly raised his voice, looking at Leeha with eyes sparkling with immense curiosity. Considering Blaugrunn’s established character, such a reaction was actually expected.

“I thought you had summoned demonic powers or something when you suddenly froze like that.”

The mere idea of Lark becoming a demon sent chills down one’s spine.

“He once fought against Toon, so that couldn’t be it. More importantly, ask him about that sword, quick!”

Relieved by Blaugrunn’s reaction, Leeha felt a sudden easing.

“3 o’clock direction, manticore spotted! The scout squad is also on the move!”

“Oh? Seems like something has come up.”

At this, members of the knight order, primarily assined to reconnaissance, tightened their surveillance of the surroundings, detecting monsters’ movements once again.

“Let’s see, the three o’clock direction…”

Leeha adjusted the scope’s magnification on the Black Bass. Despite having specialists like Rangers and Hunters in their ranks, their capabilities paled in comparison to Leeha’s.

‘Their skills are no different from an eagle’s eye, after all.’

Leeha swiftly identified the moving groups, types, and sizes of the monsters through zoomed observation.

“How many monsters usually appear?”

“Usually, four or five flying types roam around. Occasionally, terrestrial types would emerge, but they never exceed a few dozen.”

“This is insane. Are they reacting because I’m here?”

One of the knights swallowed at Leeha’s tone. Leeha himself wanted to gulp. Raising his voice, he reported, “Flying monsters, about a hundred in number! There’s movement on the ground too – hard to see with the dust, but giant beasts seem to be included! Roughly over three hundred! And-”

This was the situation right after Leeha arrived at the 『Divine Staff』. Yet, the sheer number of monsters wasn’t the main issue, as the combined forces of the knight orders camping here numbered around three hundred.
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“Emergency! Emergency!”

“Contact them! Send an urgent message! Toon has appeared!”

“We need reinforcements for the 『Divine Staff』 protection forces! Proceed with an emergency call after reporting to Juma City!”

The various knight orders were thrown into chaos as if their nests had been stirred.

To the scouting knights, the sight of Toon was obscured not only by the distance but also by the thick dust clouds hiding Toon’s massive form.

However, there was Leeha. The flickering shadow within his scope was undoubtedly Toon—Leeha was sure of it.

“Hmm~ Normally not even a glimpse, but the one time he does show up, so does Toon… The stench is too foul.”

“I fully understand what you mean, but now’s not the time to squabble, please step aside.”

There was a considerable distance between them, and they were not even looking at each other, but Leeha understood Lark’s intention. It was as if he was insinuating that Leeha was colluding with the Demon King’s Army.

“All members currently raiding near Red Wood have been called back, it will take approximately 7 minutes to arrive after reorganizing!”

“We’ve also called back knights on a paleo intimacy quest! They’ll be here in ten minutes!”

The knight order was certainly different from an average guild.

With a mix of users and NPCs, they had a structured command and emergency communication system.

For users, there’s no way to contact them once they log out, but for NPCs, the concept of logging out doesn’t exist. Leeha felt relieved as the personnel began arriving via teleportation.

Comparing to the 3000-strong force during the 『Divine Staff』 siege, the numbers were still lacking, but there was confidence that the enemy wasn’t at full condition either.

‘What about his arm… Losing one, no amount of healing magic could fully restore an arm shattered to pieces beyond recovery.’

It must have been damage beyond the concept of healing magic.

Toon, being a monster, the concept of ‘regeneration’ giving him a new arm couldn’t be dismissed, but that seemed unlikely in such a short amount of time.

If the grotesquely large arm of a 441-foot dinosaur were to regenerate in less than a week?


“It’s too unfair for the users, damn, how are we supposed to win against that.”

In an instant, the number of allied knight order members, called upon urgently, swelled to over seven hundred. Obviously, not everyone was pleased.

“Ah, it was a timed quest, what bad timing. How long will this take? Can we return within an hour?”

“There was almost this raid-ending monster. It looked somewhat like an armadillo, and we were just down to its leader, damn.”

Toon’s emergence necessitated an urgent call, literally putting everything else aside.

Those on quests without time limits were somewhat better off.

Users hunting monster groups in the new continent – practically a field dungeon – wore particularly bitter expressions.

If they hesitated here and then returned, the monsters would have completely respawned, guarding their original positions.

It meant they would have to start the entire assault over again. Despite being a part of the knight order and receiving support from royal families or affiliated cities, their financial status wasn’t infinite.

With expenditures, there must be outputs, particularly in difficult situations, a single ‘urgent call’ could mean a substantial loss.

“What’s happening? Toon, again?”

“Ah, your name is… Anyway, your grace!”

Leeha couldn’t even properly remember the bishop’s name, who had been hurriedly summoned.

After establishing a new diocese in Juma City, the post-『Divine Staff』 situation had left no room for rest.

“Can’t we just use this 『Divine Staff』 to eliminate those guys?”

“The 『Divine Staff』 has been activated, but the Holy Spirit has not yet descended upon it! If only the Holy Spirit had descended, those unworthy beings wouldn’t dare approach, but as it is now…”

“So, that’s why it needed 21 days. I see. And the Cardinal?”

Leeha looked for Cardinal Romero. Unlike the flustered bishop, cardinal Romero, with his kindly charisma and full divine power, was far more reassuring.

“The Vatican currently hosts him. To summon someone of Romero His Eminence’s caliber, we should have contacted him in advance—”

“So, you’re saying he was called here without even contacting him?”


“Of course, we’ve sent a message! But how quickly he can come…”

Leeha clicked his tongue without the bishop’s notice.

“A call has been made, he will come.’

would have sufficed, but the knack for adding unnecessary details and unsettling people is something, isn’t it”, he thought.

“Anyway, whether he can do anything upon arrival is unknown. But with the divine power needed to activate the 『Divine Staff』, perhaps he could cast a massive defensive barrier.”

Leeha adjusted the scope’s magnification. The monster hordes continued to move to the left, to the left.

What did this movement, not directly charging towards the Divine Staff, signify?

“Are they searching for a gap? To be circling at this distance and forming a formation seems pointless.”

In cases where the military forces exceeded tens of thousands, simply changing the direction of an advance could break the enemy’s formation. Moving at a higher speed than the opponent is imperative, but it’s by no means a pointless act. But what about now? Leeha just couldn’t make sense of the movements of Toon’s and Ma’s ragtag army.

“Neither side has many troops. Plus, we’re experts in team battles”, Leeha thought.

Leeha took a moment away from the scope to look over at the knights. They were forming a defensive formation according to the direction of the monsters’ movements, ensuring they were prepared even for the possibility of another surprise attack from somewhere else! “We’ll be unstoppable as long as Bluebeard doesn’t show up. Even Toon wouldn’t stand a chance.”

This time, there’s no Ram Hwajung. But Leeha had a plan.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, don’t wait for permission this time. Transform into your dragon form right away.”

“Is that okay?”

“Yes. I might struggle to make the right call while focusing on sniping. If you see an opportunity, just polymorph”, Leeha instructed.

“Alright, I won’t let Toon push forward, even if it means charging at them.”

“Okay.”

“Leeha-ssi!”

Yes?

“Ah, Nara-ssi, Kijung.”


As the members of the Sacred Knights and Byulcho arrived one after another, Leeha was confident in their preparations.

“Hyung? Can you see Toon? How far is he?”

“Yes, I’m looking. It’s a bit blurry so I can’t determine the height accurately… But it should be a little over 310 meters. Around 3.310 meters.”

“Wasn’t that about the distance when we killed the manticore last time?”

“That’s right. That creature was flying so fast it was hard to hit–”

“So, we’re not fighting Toon right now?”

Hearing Kijung’s words, Leeha felt like he’d been hit in the head with a hammer. Toon was definitely within Leeha’s range. Yet, the thought of firing in that direction hadn’t occurred to Leeha at all, leaving him flustered.

“Leeha-ssi, please try to restrain him. Even if you can’t hit him, just the act of pressuring them will weaken their morale.”

“Or maybe take down the flying creatures or monsters running in front. Even if I pull my bow to its full extent, it wouldn’t reach that far. If you could shorten the distance a bit, it would make things easier later”, Nara and Bobae agreed with Kijung.

“Uh, yeah. That would be better, of course”, Leeha nodded in response. However, Bobae tilted his head upon hearing Leeha’s response.

“Better, of course…? But why–”

“Cough, let’s go! Leeha will handle it. Let’s hurry and take our positions. Bobae, let’s go!”

Kijung intercepted any further comments from Bobae. They all knew why stretching into Toon’s range or mentioning sniping came up. Leeha’s close acquaintances had vaguely realized it. It became completely clear during the last “Divine Staff” capture battle.

“Kijung couldn’t pull the trigger even as he was dying.”

“Really? You really can’t shoot Toon? Just shoot him!”

“Damn it,-hyung… If Leeha is out of the fight, that would be troubling.”

An unspeakable frustration they couldn’t vocalize. Nara, Bobae, and Kijung bit their lips in discomfort and turned their backs to leave Leeha. What Leeha saw was their backs, but it felt as though he could see their faces too.

“Sigh… They’re right.”

“Leeha-ssi?”

“Blaugrunn-ssi, lift me up.”

“What? But”

“It’s okay. I know how to swim.”

“Swim? What are you talking about all of a sudden-… All right.

『Levitation』

Though Blaugrunn couldn’t understand what Leeha was talking about, he couldn’t refuse the request. Leeha started to float gently upward soon after.

Beyond 3 meters were sections not fully visible due to the terrain’s unevenness or small forests obstructing the view of the earth or monsters fully. However, such obstructions don’t exist in the sky.

Leeha asked Blaugrunn to stop once they reached a sufficient height.

Now, they were at a height where they could easily see in which direction the monster herd was moving.

After adjusting the scope’s magnification, Leeha examined the moving shadows of Toon.

Even in the dust, the creature’s form didn’t completely disappear.

Its massive silhouette was clearly visible.

“The rough distance is 3.3 meters. It needs to be measured more accurately.”

The difference between 3.36m and 3.3240m is significant. Leeha remembered the sizes of the trees around them, the size of the flying manticore, and the size of the giant elephant-like monster running on the ground.

Considering their size, position, what would be the measurement of the current Toon size?

When these figures appear in the current scope’s magnification, what is the distance between the target and the shooter?

“Three thousand three hundred… forty. Forty-four, forty-six? Approximately 3,345m. 3,3460m-”

They are moving. Not a fixed target.

Leeha saw Toon’s shadow waver through the scope.

“It’s shaking. Damn, if only this dust cloud would clear up… Oh, but why is there continuous dust?

It’s an unusual amount of dust for a herd of monsters moving, as if something was burning like smoke.

Leeha shook his head.

It was a suspicious phenomenon for sure,

but it wasn’t the time to worry about that.

“Re-measuring, approaching 3,319m. Still moving…. Ahead of the moving target’s direction, there’s a narrow stream and hilly terrain.”

Leeha moved the scope to trace their path.

Moving targets in the air are relatively easy to predict in terms of speed and direction, but ground movements present more variables.

Thus, the difficulty of predictive sniping exponentially increases.

“Passing that point, the estimated distance is 3,323m. After that point, there might be no opportunity.”

Leeha pressed his cheek further against the stock and aimed through the scope.

The distance to Toon from the sniping prediction point is roughly 2,000. At most, it’ll reach in less than twenty steps.

“Sigh. Woah, wow.”

Click-!

Leeha pulled the bolt and loaded a bullet.

He felt as if he could hear Toon’s footsteps.

It was as if the giant’s vibration was coming closer, shaking Leeha’s sniping posture.

“It can’t be. How can it be, when I’m suspended in the air? My body is perfectly stationary right now. It can’t be shaking.”

It was purely psychological. It’s only your eyes and hands that are shaking. And what’s shaking your eyes and hands is your heart, Leeha placed his index finger on the trigger. He zoomed the scope in. With Toon’s body height at 440 and the distance to the expected passing point at 3,325m, what would be the time taken for a bullet with a muzzle velocity of about 830m/s to reach the expected point?

At that point, what is the probability of Leeha hitting the targeted part of Toon accurately?

You can shoot. If you don’t, the guilt will only grow!

“Argh, damn it, damn it-”

His index finger trembled. The moment he felt unable to properly pull the trigger, a voice echoed in Leeha’s head.

Don’t end up like me.

Sigh-…

A phrase that popped into his mind, along with a face,

“Understood, boss.”

That settled Leeha’s mind.

To a place where even fear couldn’t reach.
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The gaze of all the knights in the vicinity of the 『Divine Staff』 shifted. A user who suddenly levitated into the sky, with an immense presence, remained perfectly still as he aimed forward. His name was known by most here.

“Is that Leeha?”

“Really?”

“Must be the sound of a gun, right? But was it possible from this distance?”

Tales of sniping a manticore from a distance of 300 meters were well-known, but seeing it in person had a completely different impact.

~

Below the standard, Leeha continued his unwavering stance. Even after finishing his shot, he remained still, fixating on what was ahead.

Swoosh!

A Blaugrunn waiting on the ground leapt into the air, approaching Leeha hastily.

“Leeha-nim…? Are you alright?”

Blaugrunn saw Leeha’s face.

It was only then that Leeha took his eyes off the scope.

“Sigh…”

There was no smile on Leeha’s face as he breathed a sigh of relief.

Seeing him like this, Blaugrunn swallowed hard. Whenever Leeha had this look, even he, a dragon, felt an unbearable sense of pressure looming.

“Still, it must have been difficult to take the shot. Don’t worry. Next time…”

“No, Blaugrunn-ssi.”

Leeha gently shook his head, a small smile appearing on his face.

“Toon is no more.”


“What?”

Blaugrunn couldn’t fully grasp what Leeha was saying.

“Is he dead?”

There had been no fluctuation in mana. For a monster of Toon’s caliber to have died without any change was strange. Yet, Leeha said he was gone.

“Not dead, not vanished, but gone?”

“It’s a bit hard to explain. If he had died, there would surely be some sign…”

“So then-”

Finally, Blaugrunn understood what Leeha meant.

“Yes. Right in the middle of Toon’s head. Bang.”

“Leeha-nim! You’ve finally done it! Congratulations! I congratulate you!”

Blaugrunn jumped joyously in the air. It was only now that Leeha could fully feel it.

At last, the fear towards Toon had been completely overcome.

“Thank you, captain.”

Leeha could smile again at the sight of the cheerful Blaugrunn. The first thought after completing a difficult mission was not of joy or triumph. It was relief and peace.

The comforting feeling stemming from knowing they wouldn’t have to face this again.

“Ah… truly, let’s not go through this again, seriously.”

Leeha’s body then gently descended from the air.

People who hadn’t fully grasped the situation looked at Leeha, bewildered.

“They’ve stopped! The monsters have halted their movement!”

“Dust scattering has ceased! No more dust scattering!”


“The flying monsters are not moving either!”

“Possible enemy charge imminent! Maintain formation as is!”

Reports from scouts followed. The movement of the monsters, which had been circling the Divine Staff to form a large ring, stopped.

The encirclement was now complete.

Soon, they would begin their assault towards the Divine Staff, facing head-on the formidable firepower.

-Prepare for the charge!

“Prepare for the charge!”

Tanks and knights raised their shields and stepped forward, followed by close and long-range attackers taking positions.

Magic from buffers resonated, and war cries from warlocks to boost morale burst forth without end. As tension tightly gripped the frontline, another shout rose from the sky.

“Come on! They will stop!”

The attention of the knights turned in that direction as a member of the Sacred Knights halted with the flag and looked at him.

“A little one?”

“It’s over! Those guys will stop. Leeha-ssi there has opened Toon!”

Blaugrunn conveyed the joyful news with a bright smile.

However, both the members and the onlookers took quite a while to grasp what Blaugrunn had said. A buzz of confusion spread quickly among the people who were momentarily dazed trying to comprehend his words.

“What does that mean?”

“He opened Toon?”

“Toon is dead?”

“That’s impossible. How could Toon be eliminated? I mean – not that I think Koma would lie, but…”

Blaugrunn grumbled.


“Believe it. Believe it. It’s coming from a dragon, after all!”

Yet, the murmurs among the people did not subside.

“Blaugrunn-ssi.”

“-Yes?”

“Could you amplify my voice, please?”

“Oh, of course.”

Blaugrunn cast a spell of amplification on Leeha.

Leeha cleared his throat and methodically explained the feat he had accomplished.

『A moment ago, I finished firing. I might have startled some of you due to the loud noise; for that, I sincerely apologize in advance.』

Leeha gave a bow, leaving some unsettled, while those familiar with him began to chuckle.

Despite not all reports being finished, the playful tone in Leeha’s beginning hinted at how he would wrap up his story.

『As you’ve just heard, I fired at Toon. The bullet hit its target. I aimed for Toon’s head, choosing to shoot at the most lethal point, and the result surpassed my expectations.』

Leeha cleared his throat again, the concentrated gaze from everyone feeling quite burdensome, yet he wasn’t nervous.

『Toon has vanished. It is presumed that the monsters have stopped moving for this reason.』

“Wow! Does this mean Toon is dead?”

The quiet ambiance once again flipped.

It was hard not to believe since the sniper was the one providing the narrative, and since the monsters hadn’t dispersed, it wasn’t easy to lower the defenses just yet.

However, right before the noise could escalate further, Leeha hurriedly spoke up, having anticipated such a response when he asked Blaugrunn for the amplification magic.

『No! Please listen to me once more. Toon has ‘vanished.’

But it’s hard to say ‘died.’

If he had died, there would have been an achievement or a system message, but sadly there was none.』

This was the reason behind Leeha’s ambiguous expression.

It was clear that Toon had vanished. Even with the scope zoomed in to its maximum, not even his shadow was visible.

Now, with the dust settled and a clearer view, there was no sign of Toon’s body anywhere. So, where did Toon go? What effect did the bullet that hit him squarely have?

Not even Leeha could answer these questions definitively, let alone the knights.

Fortunately, their focus shifted more toward the reality in front of them.

“So, the monsters aren’t coming then?”

“Without Toon, we might stand a chance against them.”

“Let’s stay on guard a little longer, just in case.”

After all, they had gathered here to protect the “Divine Staff.”

Toon’s fate was crucial, but they had to concentrate on the imminent battle.

Kijung: So? What happened,-hyung? Toon?

Of course, those most interested in ‘Leeha’s’ action were his acquaintances.

Leeha bit his lip as he read a whisper from Kijung.

He couldn’t answer whether Toon was dead, but the sudden disappearance suggested an expectation.

Leeha: Kind of… I think I understand.

Kijung: What is it?

Leeha: It was an illusion.

Kijung: An illusion? Of Toon?

Leeha: Yes. Remember how Toon escaped last time? You know who’s out there, right?

Kijung:…Prea. Hyein hyung said last time that a spirit mage could create illusions.

Hyein of Byulcho had similar thoughts as Leeha.

Leeha, too, had considered this, which is why he could formulate such a hypothesis now.

Leeha: Right. That’s what I think. And that Prea created the illusion of Toon.

This was where Leeha’s speculation reached. However, the reason why this couldn’t be made public was because it was difficult to explain.

Kijung: Why would she do such a thing?

Why?

There had to be a clear reason for Prea to engage in such an act.

Why would she simply summon the illusion of Toon and ‘dismiss’ monsters without any visible benefits or concrete results?

Leeha: Well, I don’t know either.

Leeha was also unable to provide an answer to that question.

That was one of the reasons why they didn’t bother informing the other knights. Leeha: Let’s just observe for now. I might as well go hunting while I’m at it. I’d appreciate it if those bastards could go a bit further away.

Kijung: Uh, what? Hyung?

Leeha: It feels like it should be at least 3,500 meters away.

Leeha’s voice became playful, catching Kijung off guard.

The previously serious contemplator had vanished.

‘Grasping at unknowable answers is also a meaningless act.’

Leeha pulled the trigger. A heavy shot was loaded.

Toon disappeared. So what? Thanks to Toon disappearing, the monsters stop moving.

The farthest Toon was about 3,300 meters away.

Inside that range, a group of monsters that had stopped?

“This is completely like practice targets, don’t you think, Blaugrunn-ssi?”

“Yes. Yes??

“Puhahaha, Toon bastard, no, Prea! Whatever you’re trying to do!”

Leeha adjusted the click.

What was clearly visible beyond the scope was a giant elephant-shaped monster he once faced as a ‘kid’!

“Thanks to you, I can level up!”

Baaaaaang——–!!

『You have leveled up.』

A white light burst out of Leeha’s body.

About an hour later.

The monsters were still stationary, facing off against the defense forces. The constant gunfire that lasted for the hour had finally quieted down.

It wasn’t because all the monsters were killed.

“Ah, I’ve already used up all my magazines.”

Leeha clicked his tongue in disappointment. Typically, he carried a bag full of magazines with him. The number of magazines he emptied in an hour was, in fact, countless. In that context, Leeha’s expression of disappointment was essentially nothing more than excessive greed.

The level Leeha had gained until he ceased firing was a whopping three levels.

A user exceeding level 220 leveling up this quickly was unbelievable.

Considering every shot was expensive ammunition, it was as if he had poured money into leveling up in a very short time.

“At least you had fun, hyung. We don’t even know what we’re doing here, really.”

Kijung, who had been levitated by Blaugrunn’s 『Levitation』, was floating around Leeha. In reality, there were many users capable of long-distance attacks, but none had the range Leeha possessed. And what about the close-range users?

The users and knights gathered here had no choice but to continuously listen to Leeha’s gunfire for an entire hour.

Kijung fiddled with his ears as he looked at Leeha.

“That gunfire is real torture, man. Hyung, can’t you turn down the volume?”

“If I could reduce the noise, buddy, do you think I would be doing this?”

“Right. Only hyung wouldn’t have thought of that.”

“I did think about making a silencer—”

Leeha grumbled as he wrapped the barrel of Black Bass with a rag stuffed into his bag.

The larger the gun, the louder the noise.

The larger the bullet, the more gunpowder used, thus louder the shot.

“You thought about it?”

“Silencers aren’t that simple.”

“Not simple? Isn’t it just about attaching it to the front and shooting? Ah! Is it because of a decrease in range, something like that?”

Listening to Kijung, Leeha chuckled.

The level of knowledge one might have from general FPS games.

“The range doesn’t really get affected that much. It’s more about how difficult it is to achieve proper sound dampening.”

Attaching a silencer to the barrel isn’t difficult.

However, getting a silencer to effectively silence the sound is quite challenging with just the simple structure of a silencer.

A silencer based on the baffle system could be quickly made, but with the size of a Black Bass’ bullet, expecting significant noise reduction from a simple baffle silencer would be difficult. If suppressors worked like they do in movies, emitting nothing but a soft ‘pop, pop’, Leeha would have prioritized their creation over scopes.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Leeha has overcome his trauma.
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“Since it’s a bolt-action rifle, the firing noise is somewhat contained. The real issues are the noise from the gas expansion and the sonic boom.”

The expanding gas from the fired bullet usually gets its noise reduced by a silencer slowing down the expansion. However, for a bullet as large and long as a Black Bass, which is about the length of an adult woman’s middle fingertip to her wrist, such noise reduction is impossible with conventional baffle silencers.

“Wasting effort in attaching one would not only fail to muffle the noise but might also throw off the aim unnecessarily. To fundamentally prevent a sonic boom, the bullet has to be slowed to subsonic speeds, which inevitably leads to decreased range. And considering the sonic boom can be heard even 500m away, well – wait, hold on a second.”

It was at that moment that Leeha, having been brushing off the gunpowder and residue inside the barrel, suddenly had a different idea.

“With Black Bass’s range, there’s no need to conceal noise in ultra-long-distance sniping since the bullet would have reached its target before the sound. So, where would a silencer actually be necessary?

A simulation ran quickly through Leeha’s mind. Consider a sniping distance within 1km, in a situation where there are many enemies around and moving openly is not an option, and where the objective is to silently eliminate a target. Even the best silencer paired with regular bullets cannot stop a sonic boom. The solution lies in creating subsonic bullets by either increasing the bullet size or decreasing the gunpowder.

However, subsonic bullets significantly impact the range, limiting them to close quarters, which is typically deemed unacceptable. But what about the current Black Bass? If its range and damage rely not on the bullet’s power but on the capabilities of the firearm in Middle Earth’s context?

At a shooting range, you won’t hear the firing or explosive noise, just the ‘crack’ of the sonic boom. With a ‘normal’ range, hiding the sonic boom is an impossibility! But now-

A silencer does not completely eliminate noise. However, with minor adjustments to the bullet in conjunction with a silencer!

“Kijung!”

“Yes?”

“I’ll be right back, wait for me.”

“What are you talking about? Where are you going? What if something happens while you’re gone? Wait-”

Before Kijung could finish, Leeha had already activated teleportation, having informed Blaugrunn of his destination. Kijung attempted to grab Blaugrunn’s clothes in a panic, but it was too late.

What happens when someone casting a spell moves a considerable distance away?

“Woah, Aaaah!”

Kijung, who had been floating nearby, crashed to the ground.

Despite the loud noise, the knights remained focused on the horde of monsters in front of them, not turning back. Whether to admire their stoic behavior or to feel sad about it, Kijung couldn’t decide. Leeha and Blaugrunn did not return, and the monsters continued to confront the Divine Staff’s defensive forces for about two more hours.

※※

Clang- Clang-!


The joyful clamor of hammers sounded like a work song. The place where the verbal confrontation between dwarves and players was intense was, as expected, the Gaza City’s forge.

“Since I’ve made the scope, a silencer is certainly possible.”

The realization of such technologies was not Leeha’s concern. If he provides the precise efficacy and blueprints for the item needed, along with securing the right materials, then assembling them would be the job of Bottleneck.

Although Leeha had the handicraft skill to create items himself, precision work was still beyond him. Leeha entered the forge, feeling newly grateful for having 1480 dwarves to compensate for his lack of crafting finesse.

“Bottleneck, sir- Hm?”

“Huh? My lord? What brings a human here, who usually doesn’t?”

“Oh.”

As soon as Leeha entered, Bottleneck’s eyes widened in surprise. Despite his exaggerated greeting and flailing arms trying to catch Leeha’s attention, Leeha had already noticed him.

The coat’s edge slipping quietly behind the office.

“Well, well,” Leeha mused in a low voice, “trying to escape my sight, Kidd?”

Despite quick movement, escaping Leeha’s enhanced object recognition was impossible.

Hearing Kidd’s name, Bottleneck’s expression hardened.

“And Bottleneck-ssi?”

Leeha was smiling broadly. Bottleneck couldn’t help but feel a pang of regret that he didn’t see it that way at all.

“Ahem, as you know, Lord – the relationship of the Three Musketeers… from our humble beginnings in Hyungwslow-”

“Who do you think set up this blacksmith shop?”

“Well, that’s-”

“It doesn’t seem like that guy came for bullets… So, what could be his purpose, I wonder~?”

Leeha was already aware that Kidd had finished analyzing [Enhancement].

In other words, the reason Kidd was here was solely one thing: the official start of enhancing the Crimson Geckos!


“Well, you know… Kidd might need various items too, right? Eh? Just like you, Lord, made that scope.”

“That could be. Even making something like a functional holster could increase Kidd’s rapid-fire ability by several folds.”

“Yes, yes! Exactly that! Functioning hol- Holst what?”

“Never mind that. While you’re at it, please make one for me as well.”

Despite knowing full well, Leeha was subtly pressuring Bottleneck for a reason of his own.

“Beard Brothers! Could you give me some paper?”

“Here you are.”

With a snap, Leeha quickly sketched on the paper placed on the desk.

Before the precise engineering, checking the efficacy of the item through a preliminary sketch was the priority.

Bottleneck watched Leeha’s swift hand movements with a dumbfounded expression, barely blinking. It didn’t take long to sketch a simple-looking silencer, its cross-section, and write down its effects.

“You want me to make this? A design this simple will hardly be effective.”

“Exactly, you catch on quick. This is just a preliminary sketch to simplify the understanding. The actual, precise model will be better thought out to be more effective. Simply dividing the silencer’s interior with baffles would hardly work…”

“Hmm, so the key will be how to vent the gas out.”

Bottleneck nodded, his arms crossed.

The possibility was there, but the technician’s face showed no sign of confidence in such a solution.

“That’s right. I’ll bring you the detailed design soon. Oh! And this won’t be enough. Let’s see, where was it…”

After explaining the concept of the silencer, Leeha picked up the bullets reserved for Black Bass from a corner of the blacksmith shop.

“Could you modify these?”

“Modify? If we increase the gunpowder any further, even Black Bass wouldn’t be able to handle it. Even if it’s been [Enhanced], it doesn’t mean it’s been strengthened to withstand more explosive power.”

“No, no. Listen before you object. Hehe, this modification isn’t about increasing the gunpowder.”


“Uh, then what?”

“There are two ways. First! Reduce the amount of gunpowder! Second! Increase the weight of the bullet head! Both goals are the same, to reduce the velocity of Black Bass’s bullets to subsonic levels!”

As Leeha shouted, extending two fingers, Bottleneck’s mouth fell open.

In other words, Leeha was asking to ‘weaken the power of the explosion’.

“Harder, lower, faster, stronger!”

That had always been the motto Bottleneck hammered by as a blacksmith; it was a difficult request to accept.

“What? Why do that!? You foolish lord! If that’s the case, why not just change Black Bass to a musket shape? It’d already be faster than sound-”

“That won’t do. The range would then be much reduced, making it ineffective. Which method do you prefer?”

Leeha promptly silenced Bottleneck’s objections.

The dwarf blacksmith, pondering what to say next, found himself confronted by a user who had sneakily crept in.

“To think you were babbling about suppressors, you even considered [Subsonic Bullets].”

“Hah, typical Kidd.”

It should come as no surprise to someone as proficient with firearms as Kidd. Leeha nodded.

However, the traces of embarrassment that lingered from Leeha’s sudden appearance amused him, as his face still held a slight flush.

“Oh yeah, you were pretty slow for a [Rapidfire], you know?”

“I had no intention of deceiving you in the first place.”

“What are you talking about, hiding like that?”

“Well, you know – ahem, it’s natural to be surprised by unexpected events.”

Leeha chuckled at the sight of Kidd stuttering, which was uncharacteristic of him. Even as Blaugrunn, who had been beside him the whole time, said, “Leeha-nim, your face looks incredibly weird. Manage your expressions!”

Leeha’s laughter showed no signs of stopping.

“So, the [Enhancement] is done?”

“It’s just the beginning.”

“Hmm. Well, with the analysis from Black Bass and your experience in enhancements, Bottleneck-ssi, there shouldn’t be any mistakes, right?”

Kidd confidently discussed the enhancement status while Leeha responded as if he already knew. Bottleneck was the one caught off guard. He had been worried about the illegal enhancements without the lord’s permission, but the concerned parties seemed unfazed.

“Well, yes. The [Crimson Geckos] are the simplest in form. Having four is a bit of a drawback, but there’s absolutely no reason to worry.”

Meaning that the chance of item disappearance upon enhancement failure was nearly zero.

Leeha felt anew the simple yet strong advantage of a revolver.

‘Come to think of it, based on the failure rate- the Cobalt Blue Python of Luger might have been the highest. Much more delicate mechanisms are required to control the firing of the firearms than Black Bass’s sniper rifle. If it were simply a cannon, it would have been simpler, but ‘maintaining a usable form’ while preserving power was a more challenging task. The bonobo paleos managed to pull it off. Hmmm… I wonder if they’re better than Bottleneck-ssi.”

Leeha shook his head.

If another upgrade of the weapon becomes necessary, that would be a matter to consider when the time comes!

For now, what was needed was just a silencer and subsonic bullets.

“I’ll look into the precise design of the silencer, so, Bottleneck-ssi, check the necessary materials, and consider the [Subsonic Bullets] I mentioned. As soon as possible.”

“Well, if the lord says so, it must be. Understood, leave it to me.”

“Ah, and please take good care of Kidd’s enhancement as well.”

“Uh, oh? Yeah! Of course!”

Bottleneck’s expression brightened with Leeha’s official approval.

Kidd knew Leeha wouldn’t interfere, but perhaps he hadn’t expected formal acknowledgment.

He looked at Leeha with a slightly startled expression.

“Why? Surprised?”

“A bit unexpected.”

“Do I come off as that petty? And I owe Kidd something…”

It was Kidd who had told him to “return to square one.”

They hadn’t revealed everything, but it was Kidd with whom he had first shared a deep conversation, discussing his troubles.

Now that his fear of assassination was completely resolved, it was natural for Leeha to feel grateful to Kidd.

“What are you trying to say.”

“No… nothing in particular. Ah! Kidd, let’s also take care of that [Divine Staff]! Are you going to ignore it just because you’re not affiliated with a guild? You took on the quest. This time with Alexander and all, just leaving everything behind!”

“You’re the one who settled a schedule that’s supposed to last 15 days in less than 5.”

Kidd shrugged as if asking what Leeha was talking about.

In reality, there was plenty of time left on the quest schedule.

Leeha’s haste had indeed hastened the quest clearance, but the large number of users at the Vatican who hadn’t participated from the start was also due to ‘the rushed schedule’.

For Leeha to blame anyone for that seemed a bit problematic.

Muttering to himself yet engaging warmly with Bottleneck and Kidd, Leeha momentarily logged out to review the design of the silencer.
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During the brief moment Leeha was in the outside world, another uproar erupted near the [Divine Staff], where the monsters’ standoff had ended.

“… It’s Toon.”

“Toon, it’s Toon! Toon has appeared again!”

A dinosaur with a height of 440 units caught by the scout team members.

Monsters, including Toon, revealed themselves once more near the [Divine Staff].

It had only been six hours since Leeha had eliminated the illusion of Toon.

“Damn it, what’s this?”

“Ah! Ahhh! We barely recovered from a failed quest, and now it looks like we’re doomed for real!”

“Are you kidding me? We just went back three hours ago, why is it here again?”

“Call everyone now! Activate the emergency contact network!”

It was only natural for the various knight orders to become noisy once more.

This time, they didn’t unnecessarily run somewhere or hide the appearance of Toon.

Toon, leading a group of monsters, revealed itself at an approximate distance of 2600 meters, visible enough to flutter in the eyes of the scout team members.

“Where is the bishop?”

“He went back to Juma City to report to the Archbishop after the situation ended!”

“Call him back right now! We might need to summon bishop again!”

“Understood!”

Even the most trained knight orders were naturally flustered.

Without understanding the enemy’s intent, there was no preparation beyond conventional defense formations.

Among the chaos, one of the few groups not causing a commotion was the Virtuous Knight Order.


“This is strange.”

“What’s strange, captain.”

As Lark wobbled his head, an NPC Knight , who was nearby, asked.

Amidst the surrounding hustle, he leisurely hummed, maintaining a relaxed demeanor.

“It doesn’t add up no matter how I think about it. This… Ah, could it be?”

“Is there something bothering you?”

Despite the NPC Knight’s inquiry, Lark’s expression began to clear up. He nodded.

“Think about it. The one we thought was killed by Leeha’s gun was a fake… And now you’re telling me the real one just popped up? That’s what this Demon King’s Army is suggesting?”

He hadn’t even drawn his sword from its scabbard.

Without scouting skills or a scope, he couldn’t see Toon and the group of monsters, yet that wasn’t the reason for his relaxed state.

The form of the enemy he envisioned was precisely why he felt no need to prepare for battle.

“But then, Bluebeard is ranked number one among the Demon King’s Army’s elites. With such a figure involved, they wouldn’t resort to such a shabby strategy. Heh, yes, that’s it.”

“How do you analyze the situation then?”

“Why bother saying? It’s not even certain.”

Lark held a conviction about his thought. Yet, he dismissed 1480’s question.

There was one reason for his refusal to answer.

It’s simply not fun to just tell.

If Leeha had seen this scene, he would’ve adequately said, ‘What a twisted person.’

Hearing this, a user who was standing beside chimed in.

“If you have thoughts, why not share? It’s not for nothing that you were given the command authority over a hundred people, captain.”


The user, donning the knight order’s armor but appearing somewhat slack, was someone who had vented frustrations along with Lark upon their first arrival in the New Continent.

“Ah! If you want to use my brain, then properly pay up. I clearly remember there being a bonus for securing the [Divine Staff], right, Financial Officer Pung?”

“Financial Officer, my foot. Only in the New Continent am I a Financial Officer. Back home, I’m just a commoner. Compensation is determined based on contribution, so wait a bit longer. It’s been only 4 days,” responded Pung, the financial officer of the Virtuous Knight Order in the New Continent, tasked with overseeing the financials of the dispatched knight order.

The surrounding knight order members swallowed their saliva, eagerly watching the two.

“I thought they said they don’t entrust the Financial Officer role to a user.”

“What on earth do we have to do to push through 1400 and receive the financial statement?”

“Even if it’s just limited authority in the New Continent, we’re talking about the Virtue Knights… There’s a reason we can’t ignore what these two are saying. If they are users assined roles within the meritocracy of the Virtue Knights, they can’t be underestimated.

“So, what’s the captain thinking?”

“It’s just a hypothesis for now. But I do have a rough idea.”

As if answering Pung’s question, Lark gestured around them with his chin. Everywhere, groups of light were endlessly twinkling, indicating users and 480 gathering through teleportation; in no time, their number had swelled enormously.

“It’s just a trick.”

“A trick?”

“They have no real intention to attack, those fellows.”

“What do you mean by that? Why play such a trick?”

At Pung’s question, Lark yawned. The other knights of the Virtue Knights could not fully grasp what Lark meant.

“I had a bit of a showdown with that bastard. It’s not their style to just scout us like this. So, that leaves only one thing. If it’s as Leeha said, not knowing if what’s showing is real or fake….”

Lark said, smiling slyly as he looked towards where Toon was.

“It’s all just a show.”

“But, seriously! Why do this-”

“Whether it’s fake or real! ‘If Toon shows itself, what kind of situation will unfold! Ah, geez! Think about it, Financial Officer. I’m off to Juma City, so call me if anything urgent comes up.”


Lark then immediately used a crystal ball and disappeared.

Pung and the 48 knights of the order exchanged glances where Lark had vanished.

“If Toon ‘shows itself, what then…? What kind of situation will-… Ah! Ah-ha!”

Pung’s expression brightened as he repeated Lark’s words. He was also not one to be outdone when it came to quick thinking.

“Did you get what it means, Financial Officer Pung?”

“Ah! Yes, yes. That’s right. So, this is an opportunity for us, isn’t it?”

“Opportunity, you say…”

“Bring everyone to Juma. Let’s discuss it there.”

Pung activated his crystal ball without hesitation.

With Toon and monsters swarming, commanding to head to Juma City with the [Divine Staff] so close at hand was perplexing.

Fortunately, the knights of the order, all 140[5 of them, lacked the ability to judge such matters.

The entire Virtue Knights vanished from the vicinity of the [Divine Staff] in less than ten minutes.

“Yawn. It likely seems a trick considering how much they’re dragging out time.”

Kijung yawned dramatically pointing at Toon. The personnel around weren’t as relaxed as Kijung, but their thoughts were similar.

“Kijung-ssi! Watch your mouth! The Sacred Knights are right next to us, what an embarrassment!”

“Embarrassment? I was just exercising my jaw for a bit.”

Bobae elbowed Kijung’s side. The Sacred Knights and they were closely allied, forming linked magic formations.

Shin Nara laughed seeing Kijung and Bobae.

“Kijung-ssi does have a point. It would be good if Leeha logs in and shoots once more.”

“Hm. I also judge it to be similar to the illusion Leeha fired.”

Nara and Tale agreed. And they weren’t the only ones.

Kijung, seeing the two agreeing with his insight(?), nodded and asked Hyein.

“How about it,Hyein hyung?”

“I also agree with that opinion. It’s not just similar to an illusion; it’s an illusion itself. There’s nothing good for the Demon Army by dragging out time. Then, the problem is the enemy’s intention…”

Hyein hummed thoughtfully, supporting his chin. To even Hyein, considered one of the highest brains in the group, the enemy’s intention wasn’t completely clear yet.

“Why show themselves and lead to a standoff… The most likely possibility is diversion.”

“There doesn’t seem to be any other forces near [Divine Staff]. Leeha would see more clearly, but my eyes are pretty good too.”

“Indeed. As Bobae mentioned, we can’t see the forces from the fake operation. It must mean that’s not it either.”

Hearing Bobae’s addition, Hyein smiled gently. Admitting what one did not know was also a form of clear situation assessment. Pointlessly spreading various thoughts would not help at this moment.

“If it’s not a feint, and they aren’t planning a real attack… then why do you think they showed themselves?”

It was Nara who approached and asked Hyein. When it came to understanding Shin Nara’s situation, the judgment was quite superior thanks to years of dealing with all kinds of smear campaigns and political operations within the royal palace, especially against top-level monsters that possessed judgment skills.

Her asking for advice began after hearing Hyein’s statement in Juma City last time.

Hyein looked troubled, but it was hard to ignore Nara’s keen interest, who asked with shining eyes, “A diversion.”

“Hmm- You mean, instead of [Divine Staff], they wanted to attack another area, tying down our troops here?”

Nara quickly came up with another idea as if she had been waiting, just by Hyein mentioning a new hypothesis.

“Exactly, it’s highly possible, isn’t it? You knew this, didn’t you? I thought you might have known from the time when about thirty members of the Sacred Knights were absent. That remaining personnel might be waiting somewhere at-”

“Juma City.”

“-Juma City.”

As Hyein mentioned the location, Nara spoke of it in unison.

As if they had arranged it beforehand, both of them burst out with the name.

Hyein looked at her and grinned. Nara too, smiled warmly and nodded.

“Good. Then we just have to wait and see if our prediction is correct or not.”

“That’s sensible.”

Nara had been splitting and using the Sacred Knights into two groups already. And Hyein had already grasped the number of the knights!

Feeling a new joy in realizing that Nara was playing along with her new hypothesis, knowing it beforehand, the conversation itself was exhilarating.

Both were not only quick in their thoughts but also agile in their beliefs and actions based on those beliefs.

“What are they talking about, stationing troops in Juma City?”

“Is that right, Kijung?”

“Huh?”

Kijung, hearing the conversation between Hyein and Nara, swung his head slightly. It looked hard for him to catch up with their advanced conversation, and he tried to ask Bobae for an opinion. However, Bobae’s attention was elsewhere.

“If you can contact Leeha, tell him to act accordingly, will you?”

“Leeha? Act? Why all of a sudden?”

“Tell him to quickly make a move or stamp something before Nara gets distracted.”

Kijung couldn’t quite read Bobae’s cryptic expression.

Yet, soon he could guess what she meant. Kijung’s eyes began to widen.

“Could it be! Nara- Oh!”

“Kijung? Did you call me?”

Having shouted so loudly, both Nara and Hyein turned their heads towards Kijung simultaneously. Bobae quickly covered Kijung’s mouth and showed an awkward smile.

“Uh, yeah~ Nara. We were talking about Juma City. Hahaha, we’ll go do some reconnaissance elsewhere.”

“Uh, um!”

Forced into muteness like a frozen ostrich, Kijung was sneakily led away by Bobae.

Even during that, Bobae managed to wink at Nara.

Only after receiving Bobae’s look did Nara realize her own state.

“Scouting now, why all this fuss.”

“That, that’s what I’m saying. Hahah, then, Hyein-ssi, I shall take my leave as well.”

“Ah, yes. I’m always in awe of your insight, Madam Nara. Should you grasp the true intention behind the diversionary operation, or discover anything special near Juma City, let’s discuss it again.”

“Then, okay! Yes, that sounds good.”

Nara, unable to speak properly out of embarrassment, coughed incessantly and headed towards the Sacred Knights. Watching her hastily walk away, Hyein tilted his head in wonder.

(To be continued…)
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“The barrier method is more effective than the compartment method… Hmmm, but I have no idea what could replace the likes of synthetic resin inside.”

While doodling various designs on a blank sheet of paper, Leeha wrapped his head with his hands in frustration. Silencers, depending on their types and structures, are categorized differently. Among them, finding one that not only suits Black Bass but is also easy to manufacture in Middle Earth and effective in sound suppression, was not an easy task.

“The problem is the gas. It needs to be the rapidly expanding gas that’s reduced, and in theory, eliminating the gas as soon as it fires would be best. But that’s impossible. Second would be rapid cooling… but cooling is easier said than done. That’s also difficult. Third is deceleration. Slowing down the expansion rate.”

Even if you understand the principle, exactly how it materializes can be hard to pin down.

“Cooling… Cooling…”

“Leeha, did you put away the fan?”

“Not yet. It’s a bit hot at night, hehe.”

“What are you talking about, even if you have a lot of body heat? Should Mom clean it up?”

“I’ll do it, I’ll do it.”

Leeha jumped out of his chair, trying to make an excuse, as his mother offered to take care of it herself.

At the moment when the fan’s blades hesitantly spun in the wind, something clicked in Leeha’s brain.

‘Gas expands and escapes simultaneously from the silencer’s bullet section. That means, noise is generated from that point on. If the sound can be weakened as much as possible until the very last moment it bursts out!’

If within the silencer, deceleration could be applied, and if the escaping gas could be efficiently expended and cooled?

Leeha plugged in the fan and hit the strong wind button. When the chilly breeze whooshed, blowing his hair, he was finally able to go back to his desk.

“Alright, it’s a challenge.”

The time it took Leeha to make a draft of the silencer’s design was about four hours afterward. By then, nearly a full day had passed in Middle Earth. By that time, the standoff between the forces was still ongoing in “Divine Staff.”

“No matter how much the knights try to maintain discipline, loosening up to some degree is unavoidable.”

“Rathis, I’d like to praise them. Even for a martial artist, standing in one place for more than 12 hours is one of the toughest trainings.”

At Bobae’s words, Tale nodded. Under the bright moonlit night, the knights and the legion were resting here and There , more comfortably than during the day. Yet, they didn’t take their eyes off the direction whise Toon’s vague shadow and monsters were, earning a pass mark from Tale.

“It seems There ‘s only one thing to think about…”


“What is it, Hyein hyung?”

“It’s psychological warfare. They’re trying to exhaust us deliberately. You must feel it too, Kay, seeing us all disheveled just after a day. Unable to properly rest… If this situation continues for more than ten days, what do you think will happen?”

“Just thinking about it makes me tired.”

“That’s right. They’re waiting for the moment we fall into our limits.”

Hyein wore a serious expression, quick-witted enough to notice the overt intentions of the enemy yet still forced to frown.

“Then what do we do?”

“That’s the problem.”

There ‘s no clear way to respond.

Should all the enemy’s appearances be deemed mere feints? That cannot be the case.

Mixed in with the feints were real threats. Unless one could foresee it beforehand, ignoring an enemy that has already appeared would be a critical mistake. Even if it were an illusion.

‘Just one slip could cause “Divine Staff” to fall.’

Up until now, it was mostly about sieges. For the users, taking something or exploring unknown points were the main quests’ flow in Middle Earth. But now, it’s about defense. Amidst the Wave event and given the situation that necessitated a constant “defensive” stance, fatigue started to build due to a lack of experience.

“The ones rushing in do so of their own volition. The same goes for those who rush at us. We need to think of how to handle this.”

Hyein counted the number of knights gathered around. Not everyone was present, but There were more than two thousand.

“Including the regular users of Juma City… it might not be impossible.”

She thought of implementing a rotation system, drawing on his experience from the voyage to the New Continent – to rotate the interception squad aimed at revealing the true nature of Toon.

“If we can just expose that shadow as an illusion, so many wouldn’t have to suffer. But I wonder if those who are not on a quest would cooperate? We’re putting in the effort to avoid a failure penalty, but those who came with the intention of just scoring points for knight order enrollment might not be much help.”

Nonetheless, confronting the mass of monsters that huddled There was inevitable. It was far from a task a few ragtags could accomplish. Hyein sighed deeply.

The first plan was dismissed, the second put on hold, and the third?

“Everyone could store energy in the crystal and head out for interception. If There ‘s an ambush near the ‘Divine Staff’, guessing they’d execute a diversion the moment we move – we could immediately teleport back. But that would confuse our command structure and take time to form a defensive formation. It’s impractical without fully grasping the enemy’s mobility.”


Even the knights specialized in reconnaissance reported no unusual movements or collective behavior among the monsters. Yet, wasn’t it a swarm led by a Demon King’s Fragment? If one considers the possibility of something perfectly invisible, or even a monster rigged for self-destruction creeping in.

Employing all the defense forces here was clearly an infeasible strategy. The third option was also rejected.

“Sigh, Kay.”

“Yes?”

Finally, Hyein thought of the most excellent solution. A unique existence capable of resolving all these concerns in one fell swoop. Even a dragon might struggle, but There was one user who could solve this predicament neatly.

“When is Ha Leeha coming?”

Ha Leeha’s ultra-long-range sniping was the most perfect card for solving all these problems. Only Ha Leeha could shoot a bullet that, in front of the ‘Divine Staff’, could blow Toon’s head off.

“Eh? Ha Leeha? Ah, right. Once Toon’s gone, the rest should be easy-”

“Kijung-ssi! There’s a big problem!”

Just as Kijung was hurriedly preparing to log out, Bobae rushed in frantically. The members of Byulcho, along with Hyein, were startled by his voice.

“What’s the matter? What happened?”

“Yes! Something happened! I got a message from Nara.”

Bobae relayed the message he had received from Shin Nara. Standing in formation next to Byulcho and Sacred, Kijung and Hyein realized that they hadn’t seen Shin Nara in a while. It was because There was something more urgent than protecting the ‘Divine Staff’.

“Those madmen, they’ve really done it. Let’s see.”

“Think hard, Kay. Our force might be small, but our combat strength is not to be underestimated. If Toon-”

Kijung, who had been listening to Hyein, may have had a momentary lack of insight, yet as a guild master, his animal-like instinct and judgment were more than enough to compensate.

“He’s not coming. And Leeha hyung will be here soon, so he’ll handle things when he arrives. Biyemi and Jin Gonggong, please act covertly for now. Everyone, we’re heading back. Let’s meet on the outskirts of Red Wood.”

Kijung made the decision. The guild master’s decision was, effectively, the guild’s policy.

Hyein was left speechless, unable to argue any furthis.

The entire team of Byulcho activated the crystal ball.


Several knights from the Sacred Order also used teleportation to head toward the capital of Shin Nara, joining the effort.

Despite knowing their power alone might be insufficient, they couldn’t just stand by.

“That insane Lark-”

A quiet moment had passed before [The Knights of the Rainbow] finally caused an uproar.

“If you intend to go, you’ll have to defeat me first.”

“Oh come on, what if the capital defense knights of Minis fight with those from Fibiel? Wouldn’t the entire Old Continent never know peace again? Do you keep wanting to block our path with war?”

“That’s what I’m saying! Don’t go! If our knights stationed in Juma City hadn’t sent us the news, you people would’ve-”

“What have we done? Did we do something wrong, Pung?”

“From the chancellor’s perspective, it’s not possible to judge your knight order’s actions as wrongful. Instead, actions benefiting the entire knight order warrant special bonuses.”

Lark shrugged his shoulders at him.

Pung nodded, agreeing with his statement.

It made sense for such a conversation to occur among members of the Virtuous Knight Order. Yet, Shin Nara and a few knights from the Sacred Order were diligently preparing for battle.

“What will you do when both the Red Goat paleos and the Black Crane paleos fall into mistrust of humans because of you? What about the users who come to the New Continent after this? They won’t be able to earn the affinity achievement because of you!”

Shin Nara was right to be furious. By the time he arrived here upon receiving an urgent message from the Sacred Order in Juma City, the Red Goat paleo, the Black Crane paleo, and even the Gorilla paleo on the outskirts of Red Wood had all been [Subjugated]. All this had happened within just 12 hours.

“And the numbers of the [Virtuous Knight Order] hardly changed from when I first saw them. Subduing three paleo tribes in such a short time without many casualties…”

Shin Nara swallowed hard.

She was confident against any single paleo.

But this was [Subjugation].

It meant subduing ‘every single member’ of the tribe.

Despite the considerable numbers of the Virtuous Knight Order, this was by no means an easy task.

“Moreover, to subjugate three legendary creatures in one day was nearly unthinkable.

Since the battle against the Red Goat paleo tribe, I had my doubts, but to think it was actually done in a day!

‘If it had been Harhei of the Gorilla paleos, I’d say it’s manageable, somewhat below or equal to an Adult Dragon. But Aibex of the Red Goat is slightly stronger than an Adult Dragon. Roughly speaking, it’s like clearing three dragon raids within 12 hours.”

It would be hard to believe even if Alexander and the Ancient Dragon Bailephus had done it. But to think it was done by a relatively unknown outsider, not even a high-ranker, was astonishing to Shin Nara.

“And you seem to misunderstand something, Shin Nara-ssi. Because of us, users won’t be able to gain affinity achievements… The affinity of creatures towards humans doesn’t just go from minus to more minus, but the speed at which affinity grows could slow down or, in severe cases, not increase at all… Isn’t that what you wanted to say? Right?”

“That, that’s exactly what you’re understanding-”

“Then it’s even easier. The future you worry about! If the upcoming users can’t grow strong because they can’t get achievements, then, they won’t be able to avert the crisis of the continent, right? Just make everyone strong.”

“What… What are you trying to say?”

Lark spread his arms wide and looked at Shin Nara.

Facing someone who doesn’t think they’ve done anything wrong isn’t easy.

A convict of perfect belief.

Especially when they hold their logic and cause, how should one guide them to believe?

“We spread the method of [Subjugation]. Then the future users won’t have to worry about being weak! Instead of tediously working on affinity, if users create temporary guilds and we just share the strategy with them? They can sweep through the [Subjugation] achievements! How great would that be! Our Virtuous Knight Order’s reputation would soar.”

“Hmm, true. As expected, our chief financial officer doesn’t hold the title for nothing. We might as well sell the separate [Subjugation] achievement strategies for each paleo. Or even get royalties for it.”

“Ha! Exactly! The financial officer isn’t one for nothing!”
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“Uh… I knew.”

“Huh? Knew what? Even the Dame Shin Nara from Sacred agrees with our thoughts-”

“No, I knew that we wouldn’t be able to understand each other. And”

Shin Nara quietly cast her skill.

A fencer like herself had access to a few self-buff skills.

One to increase her speed, another for more flexible hand movements, and one that left slight afterimages of her movements.

Though not as potent as those of a professional buffer, they were enough. Especially for a master like Shin Nara.

“-if our conversation has-broke down, then there’s no need for further words, right? Come at me. I won’t stand by and watch any further tyranny. En garde.”

Shaaahhhhhh…!

A sea-like luminescence briefly flickered from the sword Shin Nara was holding. There was no tension on her face. She was an Olympic gold medalist, a professional fencer.

She took her stance, facing more than a hundred of the [Virtue Knights].

With her breath steadied, she softly spoke.

“Êtez-vous prêts?”

Are you ready?

Shin Nara didn’t wait for their response.

With just one leap, the distance between her and Lark was closed. Her sword’s tip was already aimed at Lark’s throat.

“Dodge-”

CRASH——!

The knight standing by Lark swung his sword.

The clash was so fierce it sparked, contorting his expression, but Shin Nara was already initiating her second attack.


Lark, narrowly escaping having his eyes and nose cut off, sighed, patting his chest.

“As expected, her speed is outstanding. I wouldn’t stand a chance against such a surprise attack.”

Even though he thought this, Lark fiddled with his sword handle.

But the ambush was over, and fighting properly meant… Uh-uh, no way.

Despite stirring up discord with the [Subjugation] achievement, he also had an eye for assessing the situation.

Fighting Shin Nara here would not be advantageous. He had been dispatched to the New Continent as a Centurion, ultimately following the orders of King Minis, hadn’t he?

He had to follow the quest-like orders he was given.

He knew that in his head.

“But! But maaaan! Such an opportunity will never come again. A woman who earned the nickname ‘Dame’ for her grasp of knightly concepts wouldn’t face me one-on-one without her rank insignia.”

It wasn’t like Shin Nara to respond to a personal invitation for a duel.

In other words, unless there was a feud as significant as a national conflict, these two could only face each other in a situation like this!

Showing her true skills against the [Virtue Knights] might be a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity.

They had to face off now.

“Then everyone will know,” their desire to prove they was stronger, the competitive spirit.

That was fundamentally what motivated users to choose the ‘close-combat dealer’ class.

The moment Lark was about to grip his sword handle earnestly, the Virtue Knights pulled him back by his shoulders.

“Dodge, captain!”

“Catch…”

Lark’s pose faltered as he was trying to rationalize his eagerness to fight Shin Nara. Dodge it!?

Having been forced into protection, Lark couldn’t help but chuckle.


“Well, even so, I shouldn’t be playing around. Just tie up Dame Shin, don’t kill her.”

“Understood!”

With the exception of a few men guarding Lark’s position, the Virtue Knights all charged towards Shin Nara. Suddenly appearing beside him, Pung asked Lark.”

Are you sure about this? Six of them have already been taken down, and you’re telling me not to kill, just to capture?”

“It’s not like being taken down means they’re dead. If we kill Shin Nara right here, our plan would-”

“I know that. But if that’s the case, shouldn’t ‘Captain White’ be the one to step forward?”

While Lark was bracing himself to fight Shin Nara, six members of the Virtuous Knight Order had been neutralized.

From the perspective of the Virtuous Knight Order’s treasurer, the increasing number of injured was certainly not welcome.

Yet, Pung couldn’t help but admire Shin Nara’s movements for a moment, and was feeling ashamed of himself for it.

“Please make a decision soon, captain.”

Even as the two spoke leisurely, Shin Nara’s sword moved swiftly amongst the Virtue knights.

Like a breeze slipping through gaps, she was.

Belonging to the Virtuous Knight Order, which promotes with slogans like meritocracy, selection based on ability, and ‘become strong if you feel wronged,’ only a handful had managed to properly wield their swords against Shin Nara.

Lark, too, was focused on her movements.

But for now, other than scratching his head, he had nothing to do.

“Can’t even begin without the buff ending. Cut me some slack. Just because I’m the financial manager doesn’t mean you can boss me around, you know?”

“You’re waiting for the buff to end before jumping in? Why?”

“If I’m to catch up with her movements, I need to give it my all, don’t I?”

“You mean you’re not planning to give it your all?”

“Of course not! If I did, Shin Nara could end up dead. I need her movements to slow down a bit more before I make my move.”


Pung’s eyes widened as he looked at Lark.

Being a skilled warrior himself, he was confident and generally trusted his bold demeanor, but to hear such an unexpected statement?

“Is this arrogance, or is it genuine?”

Despite being fellow knights, revealing ‘personal secrets’ to one another breached Middle Earth’s basic principles!

Pung found Lark’s statement both arrogant and ludicrous, but observing Lark’s face, he could no longer hold onto that thought.

Here was a man genuinely concerned for Shin Nara, leaving Pung at a loss for words.

“She’s really fast. In the blink of an eye, another five have been taken down. That makes eleven. To have taken down eleven men and still be this spry, goodness… How does the Sacred Knight Order train its knights? Hey, treasurer, how about we suggest a joint training session with the Sacred once we return?”

Even in saying this, Lark was serious, and Pung nodded in response. More a gesture of ‘do as you please’ than affirmation.

‘The self-buff has about two more minutes. I’m outnumbered.’

Shin Nara dodged an incoming sword thrust.

Seeing a Virtue knight raise his shield, likely to constrain her movements, she wasn’t fooled.

Instead, she increased her pace, leaped towards the shield, and vaulted over it, spinning midair.

During this acrobatic maneuver, she plunged her sword into the knee joint of a knight at her landing point.

“Grrraaargh-”

“Not screaming is commendable,” she remarked, immediately lowering her stance for another strike. After confirming the metallic clang with her ears, she took a back step.

The knight’s sword sliced through the air belatedly where she had been, surprised at the sight of her seemingly being cut, yet it was her voice that came from elsewhere.

“Oops?”

“A bit faster would have been nice. I’ll give you 6 out of 10.”

What the Virtuous Knight Order had slashed was merely Shin Nara’s afterimage.

Not a clone, just an afterimage left behind by her speed, without any special speed enhancement or additional effects.

Yet, to Shin Nara, it was sufficient.

Being skilled enough to leave an afterimage with her movements alone, if she had a skill that made it even more efficient?

With just that skill, she could manage to control the thirty Virtue knights surrounding her.

As another knight’s strike came, Shin Nara parried it with her sword.

The conversation about evaluating the enemies was meant to discourage them, yet the Virtuous Knight Order remained valiant.

“Definitely strong. If it’s just about brute strength, even two of them together would be hard to deal with.”

Now wasn’t the time for any special skills.

If it had been a one-on-one with an assassin like Petyr, she would have mixed the skills of Middle Earth with real-world techniques.

But in a battle against many!”Having experienced the wave, does it help?”

In a battle against many, misuse of a skill can leave one utterly defenseless due to the delay that follows.

She had been that way during the third wave defense.

In a battle against many, what matters isn’t the flamboyance of skills but adherence to the basics.

“Over there! What are the fundamentals emphasized by the Virtue Knights?”

Nara asked as she thrust her sword, not intending to distract but genuinely curious. Like Lark’s admiration for Shin Nara, she admired the movements of the Virtue Knights. However, they did not respond to her pure inquiry.

“Our teachings in the Sacred Knights might differ somewhat. The first fundamental of the Sacred Knights is timing!”

As Shin Nara finished speaking, one of the Virtue knights had his arm wrenched backward.

It was obvious that a powerful slashing attack was forthcoming. Shin Nara’s timing was just slightly better.

Her sword had already punctured the shoulder joint of the knight, who was in the midst of swinging his arm.

“Don’t just swing your sword! Start with pressure using the shield!”

The Virtue knights quickly changed tactics.

Shin Nara wasn’t one to fall for such blatant tactics. As the knights advanced with their shields up, she shouted, “You haven’t answered my question yet! The second fundamental of the Sacred Knights is tempo!”

She moved even quicker, not allowing the knights to encircle her properly and leaving no trail behind. Passing by, she inflicted wounds on the waists, knees, and shoulders of the Virtue knights.

Only a minute was left of her self-buff! Clearing the remaining forces was feasible. But the real problem was what came next!

“Will Lark come forward first, or will it be—”

Whether her reinforcements would arrive first.

After she gouged out the eye of another knight, Shin Nara noticed a slight change in the surroundings.

Though still holding their shields, the knights no longer approached. Instead, they seemed to widen their distance, not to encircle her for restraint but to block her escape routes. Realizing this, a pale yellow barrier began to envelop the area.

A spatial lock scroll had been activated. Of course, the reason the Virtue Knights suddenly resorted to such a tactic was clear.

“First was timing, second was tempo…”

The playful attitude was gone from him, his face almost seeming to belong to a different person.

Lark repeated Shin Nara’s words as he approached with a steady step. The knights stepped aside for him.

Swallowing, Shin Nara faced the approaching figure.

“Then the third? What is the third, Dame Shin Nara?”

Lark, fully drawing his sword, asked as he faced Shin Nara, the tip of his sword flickering with rainbow colors.

“Learn it through your body. After all, exercise isn’t something you master through theory.”

“Sounds a bit lewd, but it’s not wrong. Alright, I’ll learn from you.”

As soon as Lark nodded, he charged at Shin Nara.

With a spirited shout, he swung his sword diagonally as if to pierce through her torso. Wooosh!

“Dead-”

To the astonishment of the surrounding knights, his diagonal swipe seemed perfect enough to have split her.

The forceful swipe kicked up dust, certainly looking as if it had cut her.

However, Lark’s face was twisted in frustration.

He knew better than anyone that he hadn’t hit anything.

“I thought it had caught.”

“Your ‘timing’ and ‘tempo,’ I saw them near the [Divine Staff]. The third is ‘Distance Control’. I barely missed, though.”

Shin Nara pointed to her chest, where a bent mark remained on the surface of her armor. That was all the damage from Lark’s sword.
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Before Lark could even retrieve his sword, Shin Nara’s thrust came forward.

With the distance so short, it would take only about 0.3 seconds to reach Lark’s torso.

Based on Shin Nara’s memory of his combat style and movements, she judged it an attack he absolutely could not avoid.

Shin Nara smiled.

She aimed for the right forearm.

Piercing once deeply enough to damage the muscles would make it difficult for him to grasp and swing his sword.

Though he could quickly recover by swallowing a potion, at least it would dampen Lark’s momentum.

That, she thought, was sufficient. However, Lark had fully grasped her intent as well.

“Well, dodging an initial ‘Telegraph Punch’ kind of attack is a given. I was a bit surprised you avoided it with a much more advanced technique than I expected, but nothing changes.”

Hence, Lark did not move. He only tensed his grip around his sword.

“[Blue Hurricane].”

“What?”

Whoosh——-!

A teal whirlwind erupted beneath his feet.

There was no time to be amazed that wind could possess color. The sudden gale lifted Shin Nara’s charging form entirely into the air.

“What the—!?”

“Well, I didn’t want to show you something like this. But guess it’s inevitable against Dame Shin, huh? Truth be told, it’s kind of sloppy. But it’s better to use it than to look foolish in front of the kids. Sigh, an unforeseen loss.”

Lark clicked his tongue, shaking his head. The strong winds still swirled around him.

Had the Virtue Knights anticipated this skill and thus kept their distance? Even though Shin Nara floated upward, she noted the surrounding changes. However, the Knights, despite having initially maintained a sufficient distance, struggled not to be swept away by the powerful gale.

“How can you use such a skill instantly without casting?”


It wasn’t magic.

It might be possible with mystical creatures, but she couldn’t feel the presence of any spirit or related entity here.

The only explanation Shin Nara could think of was that it all boiled down to an item.

‘His sword is of a much higher caliber than mine. Something about that rainbow-colored sword—’

“Now, come down.”

Lark pointed his sword towards Shin Nara and flicked the tip downward. The teal wind, still swirling with vigor, abruptly ceased, throwing Shin Nara’s body to the ground.

Thud!

The sound was significant but, thanks to rolling gently back to her feet, she wasn’t seriously hurt.

Lark had forcibly canceled his attack skill to prevent damage.

“Continue…?”

Lark asked, tilting his head slightly towards Shin Nara.

With his casual demeanor and arrogant expression, yet knowing the “source of his confidence,” Shin Nara had no choice but to respond differently.

“A skill, isn’t that a bit cheap?”

“Huh? My, I never expected to hear that from Dame Shin herself. Calling a skill cheap.”

“No, a common skill would be one learned from job quests or passed down by a master at level 140. However, your skill seems far removed from that.”

“…Ah. Want to go with just pure skills then?

Maybe something like wooden swords? Swordsmanship- oh, you said fencing. Using fencing swords to fight fair and square?”

To Shin Nara’s nod, Lark’s words implied understanding the secret behind his sword without a proper ambush to execute a skill before inflicting a wound on him would make beating Lark 1:1 difficult. Of course, she didn’t expect Lark to fall for such a method. As expected, Lark straightforwardly rejected Shin Nara’s suggestion.

It wasn’t just a plain rejection.

“Someone of your caliber should know… leveraging items is also a skill….”


He looked around cautiously.

“Something’s coming.”

He had inferred not just why Shin Nara posed such a question but also its underlying motive.

“Hm? Surroundings?”

Though Pung tilted his head, Shin Nara’s expression began to harden.

She had not hoped to uncover the secrets of the sword with just a few words; the dialogue was meant to buy time.

‘Jeez, his perceptiveness is infuriatingly sharp. Acting all high and mighty like he wouldn’t bother about his surroundings…’

Shin Nara scanned her surroundings. The Virtue Knights intensified their guard and surveillance as per the orders of the species. The space was locked down! Would they be able to defend against Lark’s assault if he chose to attack in such a condition? It might not be easy.

However… Shin Nara was determined not to just stand by and be easily defeated. Fortunately, the guild Shin Nara had requested assistance from was Byulcho, a place where the esteemed Ranker Bobae and the outstanding tank Kijung, along with Biyemi known for his unconventional offensive strategies, and Jin Gonggong, resided.

“In a situation like this,” they were the most reliable players one could ask for.

Bang…!

“Uh?”

“What was that sound?”

Banggg… Bang…!

“What’s this?”

“Ah, it’s too late.”

Though Pung was momentarily startled, Lark sighed.

Suddenly, the sound of a window shattering echoed through the air as a turquoise-colored dome vanished in an instant, revealing several figures.

“Whoaaa!?”

“It’s high! Land, land!”


The ones who clumsily hit the ground were, of course, members of Byulcho. A simple dimensional lock scroll could never thwart Hyein’s teleportation! However, such a skill from a Sage was not something one could see often. It was natural for Pung and the Virtue Knights to be amazed. Lark alone nodded as if he had expected this, saying, “Nara! Are you okay?”

“Bobae!”

Bobae ran towards Nara and immediately drew her bow. No arrow was placed, but something shimmered on her bowstring.

“How dare you-”

“Bobae-ssi! We should listen to what they have to say before attacking-”

“What’s there to listen to from such scoundrels!

Sharp Edge, Pointed Arrow”

The tips of the translucent arrows glistened.

Adding to the increase in attack power, the arrows were guided skills aimed at vital parts. Bobae released the bowstring.

Swish——-

As soon as she shot, the almost transparent object split into several parts, too fast for regular players to even grasp the form of it.

“Between the eyebrows, solar plexus, and… the groin. Three arrows to start with—”

“Embracing Green”

Shshshshsh— Boom, boom, boom. Bobae found herself unable to do anything but stand there with a puzzled expression. Suddenly, the three arrows had been embedded into translucent green leaves that had enveloped Lark. A wall of countless dense leaves, unimaginably thick even in a dense forest, had deflected Bobae’s attack.

“That person called Master Kay, was it? Even though it’s not too organized, suddenly releasing arrows like that, Bobae? What if you had hit him.”

she was interrupted by another sound of an arrow hitting, “Falling with the top of the head aiming—shooting directly… originally, starting with four arrows aimed at.”

The voice of Bobae gradually became embarrassed as she spoke. It seemed like an attack that had been predatory, aimed at someone engaged in conversation, but the Pointed Arrow skill had been intended from the start to target four critical areas.

The members of Byulcho weren’t particularly surprised upon seeing Lark’s skill. After all, defensive spells like the [Force Barrier] attached to accessories were fairly common amongst them. The only person who was truly anxious was Shin Nara.

“Following Blue Hurricane…

Embracing Green. Wait, hang on. Blue followed by green—”

Shin Nara’s eyes widened. Lark was staring straight into her eyes.”

Sigh, we should have visited at least two more places today. Let’s all head back, to the Divine Staff.”

“Huh? Just leave like this, even though their numbers are few?”

“It’s fine. Staying any longer would only put us at a disadvantage,” Lark activated the crystal ball. Though it was a sudden order to return, Pung did not object any further.

Following Lark’s lead, the knights activated their teleportation scrolls, disappearing in an instant.

Light flashed three or four times, and the meadow at the outskirts of Red Wood, which had just been a battlefield, was now only swept by desolate winds.

“Whew… Looks like those guys were scared of us? If they had messed around a bit more, I would have just -”

“Giggle, maybe they noticed us approaching.”

Biyemi and Jin Gonggong appeared, cutting off Kijung’s words.

They had intended to assist with a sneak attack using their stretching skill and poison pouch but could not play any significant role as the Virtue Knights had vanished.

“Maybe… it’s not just for that reason.”

“What do you mean, Nara-ssi?”

“It’s the skills… They don’t want their skills to be known.”

Shin Nara hadn’t made eye contact with Lark before leaving.

It wasn’t the eyes of someone afraid or hesitant about battle.

Instead, it resembled the eyes of a playful child, filled with secrets and unwilling to reveal them.

“And as for skills… we still have plenty left.”

Shin Nara shared her theory with the assembled members of the Byulcho Guild. The possibility of facing the Virtue Knights again was rapidly increasing.

“Huh, so what do we do now? Once Nara catches on to something, she doesn’t easily let go. It doesn’t seem like she wants to kill them, though.”

Pung, having returned via the Divine Staff, frowned.

Revealing information unnecessarily and the loss of potions for quick healing was merely irritating.

“Do you have a plan?”

“I’m thinking.

‘Toon-nim’ must continue to approach us for it to work… but there are countless ways to draw Nara away.”

“What are you planning?”

“I mentioned it earlier. You thought it was a good idea too.”

Lark cradled his neck with his hand.

His demeanor showed he was still calm and composed.

“The idea I agreed with? What was that… Ah, ah… But wouldn’t that put us at a disadvantage? Everyone might start acting like young horses in spring, and if those monsters decide to come destroy this—”

“Exactly. It would indeed be problematic if Toon could actually do that… But, let’s call on a few trustworthy knight orders and guilds from Minis. No other countries.”

Lark stretched. For Pung, that was the end of their discussion.

Now that orders were given, they just needed to be followed.

“Hmmm. Okay. After all, ‘The Hundred Captain’ is the supreme authority here. Understood.”

Pung disappeared immediately.

That night at the main camp of the Virtue Knights, some unfamiliar faces could be seen.

The rumors about the “Subjugation” achievement among the Minis affiliated knight orders and guilds started spreading the next day.

“Indeed… adding a small wing-like formation.”

“Strictly speaking, it’s more of a ‘turbine’ than a wing. The gas expands right before it exits, and this turbine forcibly spins, allowing it to escape. Passing through the bulkhead, the subjects lose enough energy, and turning the turbine and escaping cools and decelerates them a bit.”

Leeha explained, spreading out a newly drawn detailed blueprint before Bottleneck.

The silencer’s form, covered by a rotating cap, was unfamiliar even to Leeha.

“Mm, I get the feeling. In that case, a heat-resistant turbine would be even better if it could provide a significant cooling effect. If only there was a special metal for that.”

“Oh! Exactly. You understand so quickly, Bottleneck-ssi.”

“M- Me, the lord? I’ve been swinging a hammer since before you were born, you dare say that to me?!”

“Giggle, anyway! Please take care of this.”

“Are we heading to the New Continent right away?”

“That’s the plan. Let me know once it’s made,” Leeha had promised in exchange for Kidd’s request for an [Enhancement].

Bottleneck would handle everything related to the silencer, including the procurement of materials.

Leeha was well aware of how much quicker things could proceed with 20 handling it.

‘If I had to find materials myself, they would’ve probably asked for orichalcum or something.’

(To be continued.)
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If Bottleneck himself were to move, he could rapidly produce items, not just using rare metals but also by appropriately adding magical effects.

“The blueprints are sufficient. It would take at most two or three days.”

If the supersonic bullet and the new concept silencer were completed simultaneously, it would have a tremendous concealment effect in close-range shooting.

Leeha could start activating the crystal sphere while imagining that the sound might be reduced enough to be like something out of a movie.

His destination was Juma City.

“Ah, darn. I meant to go to the [Divine Staff] but here I am again. Oh well, since I’ve come this far, maybe I should grab something delicious with Blaugrunn-ssi.”

After becoming a Juvenile-class, Leeha felt sorry for not having cooked for him in a while.

He had been negligent despite Blaugrunn’s constant help in various combat situations these days.

“Maybe I should bring up the Silver Dragon story as well?”

And so, Leeha intended to casually bring up the topic to Blaugrunn.

Suddenly, he realized that Juma City seemed unusual.

“Something’s off.”

The flags fluttering above the buildings serving as the supply bases for the various knight orders were awkward but not unseen before.

However, what about the knights roaming around now?

“Monsters keep appearing. Those crazy things reveal themselves one day and then disappear the next as if sitting around…”

That they spaced out and vanished when Leeha arrived to the [Divine Staff] and reappeared some time after Leeha had left seemed plausible but also implausible.

“How do they know when I appear? It’s not like I shoot Toon directly, but they disappear just as I’m about to? It must be spies within… But there’s no way to identify each and every one of them…”

With monsters appearing, the number of knights near [Divine Staff] was always at least 1,500.

Even excluding reliable members like Byulcho and Sacred, it was daunting to find a spy among over a thousand people.

“There’s no assumption that there’s just one spy. Heck, I don’t even know how many humans Shinobi-Gumi has.”


Leeha accepted the fact that there were members of Shinobi-Gumi but was still at a loss.

Thankfully, since Toon and the monsters weren’t attacking, it was best to quickly attend to important matters given the situation.

“But… isn’t this too much?”

Leeha finally realized why he felt out of place.

“Even if there’s a possibility of Toon striking… why are there so many knights in Juma City that should be at [Divine Staff]?”

The realization that there were more people in Juma City than usual, especially knights who were supposed to protect [Divine Staff], had somehow become ‘acknowledged’ by Leeha.

[Sanctification]

Mission: 1. Secure Divine Staff within 15 days (Completed)

Protect Divine Staff for 21 days afterwards.

(Remaining Time: 14 days) There are 14 days left until the Sanctification quest is successful. A chill ran down Leeha’s spine.

“Ha-a-a-am… Boring. It seemed like a good idea, but doing it for a week straight is no fun.”

“Fun? You’re doing this for fun?”

“Sigh… Sasuke-ssi, was it? You might feel differently, but I play games for fun.”

Sasuke frowned.

Since Chiyou, who had died from a curse by Biyemi, still couldn’t log in due to a death penalty, Sasuke had been in charge of overall control of the fort-related personnel.

“Even choosing a new hideout… With just Faust and Igor, it’s complicated enough, but when did this woman… start her own operation like this?”

Sasuke glanced at Prea with suspicion.

However, the white spirit mage was just lying on the back of Toon, rolling around lazily.”

It must certainly be a welcome thing to do that-”

“Huh? Oh, right. But you know, I could just ask the wind spirit for support.”


“So, it’s the wind spirit that’s employed in creating this illusion?”

“Um, well, yes and no. It’s originally like that, isn’t it? Hehe.”

Prea turned away with a bright laugh.

It was, indeed, Prea who had been tormenting the New Continent Expeditionary Knight Order every day, including Leehar. Monsters would usually buzz around, but Toon, for one, would just stand there, silent and with a dumb look, without even roaring.

Since it was an illusion created by Prea, that was expected.

“Did you receive any direct message from- no, from Toon-nim?”

“Me? I’m sure he’s handling things just fine on his own. How would I know?”

“But you were the one who received orders from Bluebeard! Because we knew what Toon was up to, we are here-”

“Wait, wait. Sasuke-nim?”

“~Hm??”

Prea, who had been rolling around at Toon’s illusionary foot, suddenly got up.

Her eyes were devoid of black pupils, but Sasuke could vividly feel that Prea was glaring at him.

“Let’s get our story straight here. I didn’t ‘receive orders’ from Bluebeard. So, I don’t know about that.”

“If you didn’t receive orders from Bluebeard, then why are you here-”

“Well, human affairs are complicated, aren’t they?”

With that, Prea lay back down.

The wind spirit seemed to cradle her body like a hammock.

“I wonder how long this will work. It doesn’t seem like the knight order’s numbers are diminishing, does it?”

“There’s some strange talk going around. A few from the Minis affiliated knight order are said to have deserted…”

“Why? What for?”


“How would I know?”

Sasuke shrugged.

It was typical knowledge that it had something to do with the [Subjugation] achievement since one of them from the [Virtuous Knight Order] had a tie to the Shinobi-Gumi.

“To keep the knight order tied down here using Toon’s illusion… But because of the Virtuous Knight Order, knights are starting to leave in search of achieving the [Subjugation] outside.”

There wasn’t much of any force on the New Continent capable of opposing their actions.

Sasuke sighed.

“The person dispatched as the leader of the New Continent from the Virtuous Knight Order is [The Knight of the Rainbow], Lark. We have no ties with him, which is quite troublesome. Or rather, should I be relieved? It’s regrettable that the Virtuous Knight Order is pulling other knight orders, but this might actually disturb their internal cohesion.”

In some sense, disrupting Prea’s sabotage was equivalent to helping Virtuous Knight Order and Lark.

Despite that, Sasuke’s mind was actively searching for ways to turn the situation to their advantage.

“If only we could break their internal unity, Prea’s actions could be advantageous to us. However…”

The problem was accurately assessing the benefits derived from Prea’s actions. More fundamentally, the question of whose side Prea was really on was another headache for Sasuke. With Chiyou’s disappearance, Sasuke was left to handle all these judgments.

“When is Chiyou logging in? Right after she’s freed?”

“Uh…Chiyou?”

“Ah! Chiyou-nim? Well, we became sort of close, so I called her that.”

Prea tapped her mouth twice, admitting her slip of the tongue. Despite hastily trying to find an excuse, Sasuke’s face remained unamused.

“You should still watch my mouth.”

Prea steadied her heart. Chiyou and Bluebeard had formed a sort of master-servant relationship anew. However, Prea herself was more or less in a ‘give and take’ business relationship with Bluebeard.

Meaning, she positioned herself in a more advantageous standing than Chiyou. Given the importance of this matter, I understand that I would have to work more closely with Chiyou. Still, I’m wondering when we’ll receive any news about that item. Maybe we should consider an alternative…

” She remembered the conversation with Bluebeard and Noeanen on the day she returned with Toon.

“Can you really keep the knights in check?”

“Yes. If it’s my method, it’s possible. I saw it work at the end. There are a few people I’m worried about but… I think it should be effective enough.”

“Then there’s a way on this side too. Toon!”

[Yes, My Lord.]

Bluebeard nodded as he heard from Prea how Toon’s illusion could be used to tie down the knights and various users. He looked at Toon with a sardonic smile.

“What do you think about deploying your tribe? I thought I should get your consent anyway.”

[I… I am not involved with them.]

The look in Toon’s eyes briefly faltered, who had always been absolutely obedient to Bluebeard’s words.

Prea quietly listened to their conversation.

“To bite one’s tongue and commit suicide if told to die… Quite rebellious, isn’t he? What exactly does Bluebeard mean by Toon’s tribe?”

One of the features of the Middle Earth Quest System is that the storyline advances only if there is at least one user listening.

Prea was the user currently learning about another of the Demon Army’s secret weapons being prepared.

“If there’s no relation, could you persuade them to come along?”

[As Master knows, they are not the kind to show a favorable attitude once I return. Moreover, they are located in the far East, and the journey alone would take a considerable amount of time-]

“Ha, Toon.”

[Yes, My Lord.]

“Won’t show a favorable attitude, you say? Are you planning on whining about it? Haven’t I told you that the most important thing in persuasion is a kind word and a finger ready to gouge out throats?”

[Th-that is-]

“Twist their words and drag them here. If you fail this time.”

[Ah, understood!]

Bluebeard’s eyes sparkled.

Prea couldn’t grasp the situation perfectly but got the gist from Toon’s panic and Bluebeard’s stern manner.

This was the first time they instilled fear in Toon, a nightmare for the users.

“So, is he giving Toon an impossible mission? But Toon’s former tribe… There’s a place swarming with those kinds? That would be more interesting than the spirit world? Plus, it means Bluebeard is getting desperate if he had this method but didn’t use it until now.

Not just as a punishment for Toon, but Bluebeard could interpret that additional forces are necessary for his plans.

“If the Divine Staff’s power and the delay of the fourth wave made him impatient- Wait. It’s because I used Toon’s illusion that the story moved faster, right?

Prea felt quite proud, thinking she played a significant role. Bluebeard poured a glance at the self-congratulatory Prea.

“If Ghibrid wakes up well, I’ll listen to what you think.”

“Oh? That’s sooner than I expected. If you do that, I’m all for it.”

“Ha? Anyway, I’m relieved you’re not slyer than Chiyou. You shouldn’t have let such words slip out.”

Bluebeard sighed and shook his head.

“Is that so?”

Prea grinned, and upon seeing her smile, the corners of Bluebeard’s mouth rose again.

“No, no. If that was a calculated act, you might be too cunning to compare even with Chiyou.”

“Me? I’m not sure what you mean?”

“Ha-ha, okay. Got it. Oh! But remember, I am merely a matchmaker. If the other party doesn’t take a liking to you, Prea… well, I’d rather not recommend. You might wish you were dead.”

“That would be terrible. I’ve never succeeded in a blind date before.”

Prea laughed innocently.

Bluebeard laughed heartily once more.

As their laughter faded, Toon and the horde of monsters, who had put several users including Leeha on edge, began their first appearance.
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Matan’s Shooter 636

“But you’re saying this mystical creature is on the level of an adult dragon? Now that’s something to look forward to after a while.”

“We’re not even geared for a dragon raid right now… Hmm… Keke.”

Kijung: Leeha, these guys are making bold claims about doing a dragon raid, can you believe it? I’ll just… Ah! First of all, let me just relay exactly what I heard,

Leeha: Understood.

Hiding any sense of unease, Leeha followed behind the knights wandering around Juma City.

Of course, it wasn’t Leeha who was doing this in person.

“Certainly, [Marking] is pretty useful. But an adult dragon level? Could it be… Right now, it’s Blaugrunn, who has polymorphed into a bug, flying around them and listening in!”

Leeha was checking their location from at least 30 minutes away, following the knights through Blaugrunn’s ‘live-broadcast.’

“Virtue managed to pull it off, didn’t they? Still, I doubt nations of the same alliance would backstab each other.”

“We’re not on the same level as those guys. We might have more numbers, but it still feels risky. I mean, what if other players around us see what we’re doing?”

“That’s the plan! The Kantus Knights will control the surroundings first, then we take our turn. After that, while we’re keeping watch, Kantus goes for it. Did you even listen during the briefing?”

“Shh. I’m just worried, you idiot. We’ve barely achieved the [Subjugation] achievement even in the Old Continent.”

Leeha abruptly stopped.

Leeha: What did you just say?

Blaugrunn & ???: It’s the Subjugation feat, Leeha. These guys might… Ah! Ah! If you’re connected, you should say something! Hurry over with the [Divine Staff]! Virtue Knights are going for the Subjugation feat!

Both Blaugrunn’s and another inner voice reached him at the same time.

Amidst the confusion and noise, Leeha’s thoughts were quickly honing in on the answer.

The [Subjugation] already achieved by the Virtue Knights, and the systematic and confident methods ‘apparently known’ by the knights from other orders.

Combining the two, there was only one conclusion.


Subjugation success… Moreover, they’ve spread the method! Not just spread, but the knights who heard it are confident enough in their success- is there really such an effective strategy!?

Leeha thought of the Red Goat paleos, his body trembling.

[Subjugation] is an act much more difficult than any raid, and the fact that the [Virtue Knights], who have only arrived in the New Continent recently, have already accomplished it!

“How could they perfectly analyse the Red Goat paleos’ attack patterns and movements, without even being near the Divine Staff to analyze it, to the point of instilling confidence of success even in ordinary knights without Lark’s sword?”

Could such a thing even be possible?

Leeha pondered for a moment before sending a private message to his friend.

Leeha: Kijung, I’m following those guys saying they’re going for it? I’ll confirm with my own eyes then come back.

Kijung: Eh? What? Who’s doing it?

Leeha: It’s not Virtue, some other knights, but it seems they got something from Virtue. I’ll check their attempt at Subjugation and come straight back, so wait for me.

Kijung: Wait, hold on! Ah! Then shouldn’t we be the ones going! If we’re going to stop them–

Leeha: No… Right now, stopping them isn’t the priority, Kijung.

Kijung: Then what?

If the method passed by Virtue doesn’t work, then we’re lucky. We’d just need to keep an eye on Virtue then.

But what if the method works?

“Every knight order might start going wild. The only way to fundamentally stop it is- no, above all…”

Isn’t Leeha also a gamer enjoying Middle Earth?

Naturally, he was curious. What method did Lark and Virtue use, having only arrived in the New Continent not long ago?

In essence, how exceptional was Lark’s ‘insight,’ even merely as a fellow gamer, this piqued his interest.

Kijung: Anyway. I’ll go and report back, so tell everyone to wait. Just seeing one team succeed will be enough; it won’t take too long.

“Ah, understood.”


As Leeha wrapped up the secret conversation with Kijung, Blaugrunn was briefed on the situation on the ground.

“Leeha-nim, these bastards, have come near the Red Goat paleo village. We’ve also confirmed contact with another knight order.”

“Understood, I’ll be there shortly.”

“It’s likely those people are the Kantus Knights.”

Given their location and the circumstances, the strategy to achieve the [Subjugation] achievement was imminent to commence.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, please check if anyone nearby is using magic like invisibility detection. If not, prepare to cast invisibility magic on me as soon as I appear.”

“You’re coming in person?”

“Yes. I need to see it with my own eyes.”

After finishing the talk, about 15 minutes later, Leeha safely arrived at Blaugrunn’s site and successfully went into hiding.

Then, for approximately 2 hours and 30 minutes, they witnessed the downfall of the Red Goat paleo village.

“Did we really do it? With just one knight order?”

“Yes. It was much more systematic than conquering an ordinary dungeon. The movement of closing in from all directions, the division into teams from 1 to 8, detailing down to minutes and seconds what actions must be completed, there was no disruption in the organic flow or real-time responses.”

Although the recording feature was activated, it was uncertain to what extent their actions were recorded due to a scroll that prevents recording.

Fortunately, Leeha had just returned from seeing it firsthand.

Without watching the video, just by spreading out the map and explaining, most of the Sacred Knights and officers could visualize the narration in their minds.

“Aibex did put up a fight, but it was indeed… unfit to protect their ‘guardian deity’ since most of the Red Goats had been subdued. The part where Youngblood cried out in grief was particularly distressing to me.”

Leeha sighed.

How many times had they wanted to rush out and help? Especially during moments when the paleo village’s mystical creature, the Aibex, was being attacked, Leeha was almost ready to draw Black Bass. However, Leeha couldn’t move carelessly without checking the state of their strategy completion.

“To capture that mystical creature so easily? They said it was at least of Adult Dragon grade.”

“Then, it must be feasible. Close to Adult Dragon grade as it might be, the members of the knight order have either experienced dragon raids or are well-versed with dragon raid strategy videos.”


“Hmm… Still, suppression is a bit different from killing.”

It was Shin Nara who answered Kijung’s question. Leeha looked at her, feeling it natural for her to think this way.

“You’re right in this case, Kijung. The goal isn’t to kill, but to suppress. The creatures have burrowed somewhere specific.”

“Burrowed? Where?”

“The mystical creature is the guardian deity of the paleo tribe… and considers all paleos as its children, remember?”

“Ah, right. That was the case.”

Leeha took another deep breath. Lark has an unidentified secret weapon, a sword.

Yet, another knight order, without such a special item and having nearly 200 members, could so easily conquer the mystical creature. The reason they were 100% confident in conquering the mystical creature!

“They targeted that. Lark knows well that they are designated as ‘life forms between beasts and monsters’.”

“…What does that mean? How is that related?”

“Could it be…! Leeha-ssi, are you saying-”

Hyein, who had been silently listening, suddenly stood up. Setting aside the admiration for his quick thinking for a moment, Leeha opened his mouth, looking at his face filled with astonishment.

“What reaction can a parent, whose children are taken hostage, possibly have?”

Leeha said this while glancing around.

Except for Hyein, who had been previously acquainted with the concept, it didn’t take long for the rest of the group to grasp the true intention behind his words.

“What, what? What does that mean?” someone stuttered in confusion.

“No way! You’re saying that works on paleos!? How could- How is that even-”

“I wasn’t entirely sure myself. But it’s clear now. At the beginning of the raid, the Aibex fiercely resisted and wiped out a significant number of the knights. Of course, thanks to the strategy provided by Virtue, it was the ‘defense-specialized knights’, wielding shields larger than their bodies, who held the Aibex at bay, buying time. Meanwhile, the rest of the knights, divided into groups of eight, succeeded in subduing all the paleos transformed into Red Goats. And at that moment…”

Someone swallowed their saliva upon hearing Leeha’s tale.

“Aibex stopped moving. It seems likely there’s a rule embedded, ‘When all subdued paleos are subdued, the supernatural being ceases to resist.'”

Monsters might not cling to their offspring with such intensity—if we were talking pure beasts, perhaps. But for beings like humans or elves, who live in communities yet exist as individual organisms, the scale of hostage-taking like the paleos wouldn’t normally be effective.

Such tactics are only viable amongst those peculiar life forms that exist between monsters and the 1/480 standard beings!

Leeha had an intuition that the merfolk and Sea Gods residing in the Dragon Palace within the Sea of Dawn had a similar relationship.

“Hold on – just a moment. How did Lark know to tell the other knights about this? Without experience, how could he identify such a systemic vulnerability? Are you saying he figured that out on his very first attempt at a raid? What about prior analysis? It wouldn’t be possible in regular dungeon raids, let alone a never-before-attempted ‘paleo Subjugation’ so easily-”

Hyein pressed Leeha for answers, though Leeha himself didn’t know more.

What he saw was merely the raid tactics of ‘other knight orders’ that heard the strategy from Lark and Virtue.

Only Lark himself could know where he learned it and how he was confident of its success.

“Even so, catching and subduing those Red Goats without letting a single one escape, not even one getting away, is no easy feat. At least, the effectiveness of that strategy seems legitimate…”

“…You think he’s that amazing, Tale-hyung?”

“Hmm. To have withstood Toon’s attack alone speaks volumes. It’s a pity his temperament is not as exceptional as his potential as a martial artist.”

Tale was impressed. Revolutionary strategy, confidence, and the skill to make it happen.

“Still, surviving Toon’s attack, kinda feels like luck, doesn’t it? The combined attack by Ramhwajeong and Leeha-hyung that blew off an arm, and ah, let’s not forget I had…drained some strength using [Sacrifice]. He wouldn’t have stood a chance alone,” someone said, mixing admiration with a touch of envy. Not exactly pleasing words for Kijung, the guild master of Byulcho, to hear.

Of all the people, Kijung was among those least willing to acknowledge Lark’s prowess.

“I don’t like that guy.”

“The problem is the seed that displeasing man has sown is starting to spread.”

Shin Nara sympathized with Kijung’s sentiments, but criticizing or condemning him wouldn’t change anything.

“Right. Even if we make Virtue promise not to spread the strategy anymore, what’s the point? Others already know it. If they go ahead…”

It would essentially make fools out of all the knights stationed to guard [The Divine Staff].

After all, weren’t all the knight orders here upon the Pope’s request and directed by royal command from their respective kingdoms to secure and protect [The Divine Staff]? Any actions related to ‘subjugation’ essentially boiled down to an act of selfishness; an ‘as long as it’s not me’ mentality.

“Using Toon as much as you like might be possible, but stirring things up now will only bring chaos,” Leeha muttered, grinding his teeth as he looked at Toon’s shadow. It was within a distance he could shoot at any moment.

Real or illusion, a single hit would reveal its nature.

But what if the shadow Leeha targeted, assuming it were an illusion, simply disappeared?

TL’s Corner:
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“…What happened to the Red Goat paleos?”

“The new players arriving in the New World now can’t even get close to them. They try to kill them on sight.”

The paleos’ affinity toward all players will continue to decrease. This is a problem not between individual versus individual, but between group versus group. Thus, play in the New World can no longer count on cooperation from the paleos. For Leeha, who had benefitted greatly from the paleos until now, this was a dire conclusion.

“In the end, does each person here have to stop the knights wandering around in pursuit of the ‘Subjugation’ achievement… How do we do this?”

Having the entire Sacred Knights Order wandering around isn’t really an option. Nor is having a swarm of star grass easy.

As everyone was sighing, Bobae-bae suddenly looked up excitedly.

“What if I caught them?”

“Huh? Caught them how?”

“Hide somewhere near the paleos’ village and when the paleos attack, I could go ‘whoosh’ with my arrows!”

“…Ms. Bobae-bae, even if you intended that as a joke, it’s not the time.”

“Ah, no! Listen, Kijung-ssi. I can handle a few invisible arrows! If I shoot whenever the cooldown is up, maybe we could assassinate the key figures in the Knights Order?”

“But if you get caught, it would create real chaos. If we, the star grass and dogs– And we never had a guild war with the Knights Order before, it might be fun.”

Excited Bobae-bae offered an idea, but Kijung received it with indifference.

In reality, it was a high-risk idea that offered little reward. Missing a one-shot kill could reveal Bobae-bae’s name to the target. The moment Bobae-bae is identified, star grass would be subjected to all sorts of accusations and attacks from the Knights Order. “I don’t doubt Ms. Bobae-bae’s skills, but… I agree with Mr. Kei’s assessment. Surely you have a stealth skill, but the moment you attack, you’ll be revealed. It’s too dangerous.”

“See, Bobae-bae! It’s not just me thinking this. Give it up, quick!”

As Tale spoke seriously, Bobae-bae could no longer vehemently argue and relaxed her grip, stepping back.

In that moment of collective sighs, there was one who was seriously contemplating.

“That might not be such a bad idea?”

“Huh? What, Leeha?”

“Exactly. Just kill them all. Stop them from subjugating.”


“Wait, what are you saying? Doing that would cause chaos! Even if you don’t have a guild, if all the national orders of knights mark you for death! Do you have any idea how devastating it would be if they declared war on the Gaza Cityh, destroying your city in the process?”

As Leeha lifted Black Bass, Kijung hurriedly covered him with a cloak, as if afraid someone would see, though Leeha showed no sign of discomfort.

“Ha… What kind of nonsense is going through your head now?”

“It’s still just a thought.”

“But High-high, you know your own weakness better than anyo-”

“Enough. I’ll tell you the rest later. Kijung! I need to go.”

Leeha suddenly stood up.

Remembering something meant it was crucial to act immediately. Leeha was well aware that this was now a battle against time.Whoosh…!

In an instant, Leeha’s body vanished. While Leeha, the Sacred Knights, and Byol Elementary were in the middle of their discussion, Heuk Durumi paleo was being subdued, and the Red Goat paleo was also being overpowered by another knight order. No matter how much it’s tried to be concealed, daytime words are heard by birds and nighttime words by mice. Not just in Minis but also in knight orders from other countries, rumors about the achievement of subjugation were gradually leaking.

If this distrust among each other continues, and all knight orders also start getting greedy for the subjugation achievement before it’s too late, then the alliance formed to protect the “Divine Staff” will utterly break down.

“If we could just finish a little faster…”

It took Leeha about four more days to wrap everything up for the plan.

Despite minimizing logouts and preparations, it was impossible to shorten the time further.

The silver lining, fortunately, was being able to block the movements of the “Victurus Knight Order” within those four days. Lark was somewhat puzzled as his predictions did not pan out as easily as he thought.

“How are things?”

“It seems they’re all over the place chasing subjugations. Already more than five knight orders have finished with the Black Crane.”

“Hmm, they surely can’t be unaware of the situation.”

Lark crossed his arms and looked out at the distant crowd. There was no noticeable movement between the members of the Sacred Knights and Byol Elementary. 

“They must know. Maybe in Ms. Shin’s perspective, it’s just about holding us back?”

“No, that can’t be right. Just combining the words of Dame Shin, it’s easy to understand. She’s somebody trying to prevent the situation where paleos grow a hatred towards users, to prevent collisions of civilizations against each other. So, she’d likely keep all knight orders in check, not just us. The affinity has already plummeted to -100%, right?”


“Right.”

The bittersweet news by the time Leeha finished preparations was that the paleo tribes near Red Wood had achieved a -100% affinity with all races of the old continent. This was the first stumbling block for users who entered the new continent hoping to raise affinity. 

The village of the Red Goat paleo was piled high with the glowing corpses of new users. As the number of light corpses grew, so did questions and anger towards the paleos within various Midleus communities. 

Leeha’s biggest concern, a full-blown conflict between civilizations, seemed imminent. “But still, they don’t act… Do they have something else they’re relying on?”

“Now? Them? They’re probably just thinking of conquering other paleos once this area is settled, Captain.”

“But, aren’t you overworking me, considering I’m the White Commander?”

“Because paying one White Commander is cheaper than managing ten other knight order members.”

Pung shrugged.

It meant that Lark, the White Commander of the “Victurus Knight Order,” was in charge of information management during campaigns.

His animal instinct of rejection by Lark was also due to his outstanding abilities.

“When we get back, I’ll have to make sure to remove the cap on allowances. Damn, I’m the White Commander in charge of two hundred people, and I’m only paid enough for five members. This feels like I’m getting the short end of the stick.”

Lark grumbled as he stepped into the campsite, still not feeling worried as he observed the movements of the Sacred Knights and Byol Elementary. Amidst their complacency, a smile finally bloomed on Leeha’s face.

※ ※

“Ten minutes to entry, final check. If we do as those damned ones said, we won’t die, but don’t let your guard down.”

Rustle-.

A soft sound of parting grass was heard.

In the midst of enemy territory,

“Not a single knight here would foolishly shout ‘Understood!’ loudly.”

The knights of the Minis, known for their bravery and unmatched by any, were those of the “Castilla Knight Order” who had fervently participated in the frontlines during the war with Tueviel, and the 1447ers, all watched ahead with stern faces.

“Current time, 1840. Complete group movements by 1855 and commence actions at 1900. Standby at respective operational positions by 1930, then all enter at the signal flare at 1933. Remember, unlike the Red Goats, the Black Cranes have the ability to fly.”


Rustle-.

Once again, everyone nodded in unison.

Although the leader of the Castilla Knight Order dispatched to the new continent was not a user but rather 1480, they could not just sit idly by upon receiving the ‘news’ from the Victurus Knight Order and others from Minis. With pride in their valor, the Castilla Knight Order, driven by their competitive spirit, indeed sent the largest number of members among the knight orders dispatched to the new continent.Ironically, there were more moments filled with frustration for being late to achieve the “Subjugation” feat. 

“The Virtuous Knight Order’s suppression time is 3 hours; the Kantus lot claimed 2 hours and 30 minutes. What is Castiya’s goal?” 

No conversation is allowed during the approach to the battlefield. The rule of the Castiya Knight Order, that even in death, one must not scream, tested the members at every moment. Had anyone answered ‘even faster than that!’ then, the Knight Commander’s sword would have flown towards them. 

“Finish within 1 hour and 57 minutes. Enter with the signal flare of 1933, and move with the resolve that it ends at 2130,” the Knight Commander said after pulling out and checking a pocket watch. Although there’s no direct time alarm provided by the Middle Earth System, it’s not impossible to make a ‘watch’. 

Being a finely made luxury item, it’s quite expensive but to any Knight Commander, such an amount was trivial. 

“Commence group action. I wish you good fortune,” said the Knight Commander before turning around. The group actions assined back in Juma City were immediately enacted. 

They encircled the Black Crane paleo’s territory from a large circle, threw a mana net into the sky to prevent the Black Cranes from flying to high ground, and used flying magic scrolls to swiftly cut off the panicked Black Crane paleo’s wings. There was a specific caution to not fully cut off the wings as it could lead to death. 

For the members of the Castiya Knight Order, this was actually a difficult command. 

“But if those bastards from the Kantus Knight Order could do it, there’s no reason we can’t.” “Matching the throwing point and timing of the mana net is the most crucial in this operation.” 

“The elite members including the commander will take care of the Black Crane spirit beasts, so don’t worry.” 

If it’s a close combat with ordinary paleos on the ground, it wasn’t something the Castiya Knight Order should fear. 

However, it was regrettable that many of the purely warrior-type players, who weren’t adept in magic, had to use high-quality items and scrolls for all kinds of actions. 

Since each group had its assined tasks, they briefly verified them, taking a moment to steady both their nervousness and excitement. 

Finally, the scheduled time arrived. At 18:55, all groups had finished their individual briefings. 

At 19:00, the mission commenced. The groups positioned themselves around the Black Crane paleo village in eight directions, implementing stealth maneuvers. At 19:15, the position of the four groups was confirmed. 

Standby. 

At 19:29, the position of all eight groups was confirmed. Standby. Not a single fool was found scrambling for buffs or scrolls belatedly. 

The members of the Castiya Knight Order, having prepared meticulously to ensure that not even the moonlight could reflect off their sword blades, straightened their backs finally. At 19:33, Eventually, the red signal flare was shot. Without shouting a charge, Crunch, crunch, crunch! 

The leader of the 8th group of the Castiya Knight Order, running rapidly through the bushes, suddenly looked back. The first thing to do along with the signal flare was to throw the mana net into the sky to block flight. However, there was no mana net being scattered from behind him. 

“What are you doing? The net- Huh?” 

Turning back, the leader was momentarily perplexed. There was no sign of the person who was supposed to throw the mana net. “Where did that bastard go? Come out, you bastard! The commander will-” Thud. “-How- What’s that noise?”

Thud. 

“Uh, huh?” 

The leader looked back again. Even if he had stopped, the other members who rushed out with him should have continued with the operation. However, only inexplicable sounds reached him intermittently, with no signs of the battle noises from the knight order members. 

Instinctively, the leader sensed something was going terribly wrong. 

“No, that’s not it. The nicknames of my team members are turning into light.” 

One could see the names if they opened the party window. And now, many of those names had turned into light. Either they logged out or they were marked as dead. 

If it were the players, they might think it’s due to logging out or server instability causing a disconnection. But what did it mean for the names of the 1480 to turn into light? 

“Dead!”
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The squad leader immediately took out a whistle.

The signal for something gone wrong was to blow it short and sharp, three times.

“Uh huh-?”

This brief curiosity was cut short as the leader lost consciousness, logged out of Middle Earth with only that much of the memory left.

Of the eight mana nets that were supposed to be cast, only three had been deployed.

The Castilian Knights’ commander would undeniably be aware of this.

This was because the expanse of the delicate mana net unfolded in the air hadn’t even managed to fill a third of the Black Crane paleo territory’s area.

“What’s going on? Where- Who are the idiots not following the plan!” the leader of the Castilian Knights grimaced in frustration.

However, the knights, adhering to their principle of silence on the battlefield, found it difficult to respond immediately. Designed for the most secretive maneuvers and efficient combat, their reliance on hand signals and body language was proving to be a hindrance in this situation.

“Open your mouths, you morons! Speak up! What the hell happened!? Which squad messed up, and which one was it? Know that once we return, I’ll have your heads!”

Despite his roaring anger, nothing changed.

The plan faltering and the risk increasing was an unforgivable situation for him.

But what was even more unacceptable was the thought of failing so miserably at achieving the “Subjugation” achievement, especially when lesser knight orders had already obtained it.

Their only remaining option was clear.

Forward, ever forward. Now, they had to claim their achievements through sheer force.

“Charge! For-”

“Black Crane! Lead us all, let us give them a taste of their bloodied regret!”

Overpowering the commander’s voice, the resounding call of the Black Crane paleo tribe’s guardian spirit, huded, filled the air.

Black-

Crane!


What followed was, of course, an explosive festival of light!

As long as the skies remained open, nothing could limit the movements of the Black Crane paleos.

The Black Cranes transformed and soared into the sky.

They were not a tribe to avoid combat. Their ascension was solely to gain the acceleration needed for their descent!

“Rampage all you want, are you not primitives!

Not the Castilian Knights to be bested by you beastly fools!”

The commander of the Castilian Knights easily sliced through the beak of a Black Crane paleo charging at him.

Blood burst from the severed connection of nerves and vessels in the bird’s beak.

“Come at me, come at me!”

Another Black Crane paleo swiped with its fiery wings, which the commander parried with his sword, leaning back to dodge and counterattacking with the pommel of his sword against the Crane’s spine!

The commander proved his worth, defending against the attacks of three Black Crane paleos.

“Arrogance never ceases with humans! But, perhaps, that is the very nature of humanity!”

“Great bird-brain? Lucky me. I’ll take you down and correct this blunder.”

The commander raised his sword.

“Castilian Knights’ guardian beast squad, assemble! After we subdue this beast, we deal with the rest of these half-breeds!”

He confidently declared, eyeing Hudid with determination.

Though some squads had erred in casting their mana nets, it wasn’t as if there were no plans in place. With faith in their flight scrolls for aerial ascendancy, they believed they could have subdued a significant number of the Black Cranes. Above all, it was his confidence in being able to stop the mystical creature, hoodid, that had led him to devise this operation. He knew that if they could keep Hudid at bay, Joe, who had failed in casting the mana net, would work even harder to make up for his mistake.

“What are you doing! Spiritual creature defense team! Gather all at once!”

The paleos’ settlement was vast. It was, after all, their living space. Thus, the Knight Commander found himself unable to fully understand what was happening around him.

Suddenly, a chill ran down his spine.


“The sound…”

Never take your eyes off the enemy you’re facing.

It was a sense of foreboding dire enough to break the knightly order’s primary teaching. How could there be no sound on such a battlefield? He looked around.

“Did you think we would be unprepared? I can’t begin to imagine how we’re going to return the humiliation inflicted upon us by beings like you.”

Flap-flap—

Hudid looked down at the Knight Commander with its wings flapping. However, the Castillan Knight Commander no longer had the strength to look back at Hudid. There were no more knights left around him.

The paleos, transformed into black cranes, were standing over their bodies.

“How… What…?”

His hands trembling, the Knight Commander took out his pocket watch again. It pointed to 19:47.

“Three hundred knights— in just 14 minutes… This makes no sense. We even had the numbers advantage. Not to mention, these were the elite of the elite! There must be something, something…”

“Burn.

‘Inferno’.”

“Ah- AAAAAHHHH!”

Hudid gave him no time to think any further. As flames engulfed the Castillan Knight Commander’s body, he rolled on the ground.

It took less than two minutes for the screams and the smell of burning flesh to spread through the paleos’ settlement of black cranes.

With a terrible noise, the leader of the Castillan Knight’s New Continent expedition turned into light.

“Hyung! Are there any humans left?”

“None. All confirmed dead. There’s another group of humans about 8 minutes away by flight, but it seems they have no intention of approaching.”

“They must be the ones on watch. They were supposed to relieve these fellows.”

“It seems so.”


Hudid clicked its beak, then, curiously, smiled.

“Speaking of which, isn’t there one human left?”

“Excuse me? Ah! Yes, that’s correct. Currently, there is one human remaining within our settlement, Guardian Deity.”

The big crane hyung of the paleos hesitantly nodded, then quickly affirmed. Hudid turned its head toward the center of the settlement, to the abode of the guardian deity—Hudid’s own dwelling.

“We have no more observers. You may come out, human.”

Looking at the large nest-like abode, hoodid called out to the human. In a place like the paleos settlement, where all _Human Affinity -100% had been achieved, the presence of a human?

If the Castillan knights who had just died could hear it, they would have been shocked to death, but the other black cranes showed no sign of objection.

“Huhuuu… Did anyone notice, by any chance?”

“Your strength is something we recognize, but our power is by no means weak.”

“Of, of course! When did I ever say that Lord Hudid and the rest of you were weak?”

The human who stumbled out of Hudid’s nest, momentarily flustered by Hudid’s playful teasing, then tapped the butt of their weapon lightly and asked.

“Did you not hear a ‘Sound’, by any chance? Plus, I was a bit embarrassed because my body emitted a white glow a moment ago—no, not level up, but you know what I mean.”Our ears are quite sharp. It was so minute that it was almost imperceptible to us, so you need not worry, Leeha-nim. Moreover, in a battlefield like this, no human would concern themselves with such a small amount of light, especially if they are as skilled as you said, Leeha-nim.”

The reason the Castilla Knight Order, even with their numerical superiority and their well-planned strategy, failed was because of one factor they could not have anticipated—the existence of the Shadow Hitman, Leeha!

“Is that so? Well, I did experience it during the test, but just in case. Hehe.”

Leeha gave a cool smile, glancing alternately between the tip of his rifle, black Bass, and the small bullet in his right hand.

The combination of a newly invented silencer, finished just this morning Middle Earth time, and subsonic bullets, reborn under the hands of Bottleneck,-hyungught about an outcome beyond imagination.

“Never thought it would be used in such a manner.”

Leeha reflected on the recent days he had spent fighting and exchanging blows with Bottleneck.

“Is this the final version?”

“I’ve tested it, but it’s hardly sufficient. It’s essentially an extension of the barrel, isn’t it? If it’s even slightly misaligned by 12mm, the bullet could shatter this silencer.”

Precision work, such as what’s needed to create an item where the horizontal and vertical alignments are perfect, was nearly impossible without mechanical presses, especially in a world lacking such machinery.

The more integral a piece is to connecting with a firearm, like small tooling not made of mere iron, the greater the demand for precision.

“Hmm, it looks a bit different from the drawing I made.”

“If I made that wing-like part any bigger, it would actually increase the noise. That’s because the elements that need to escape would not hit the wings but escape through the holes between them.”

“Well, since Bottleneck-ssi made it, I’m sure it’s reliable. Shall we start the test then?”

“But it’s not that simple! And even though the noise is reduced, it’s still not satisfactory!”

Bottleneck shook his head in embarrassment, but Leeha was undeterred.

He immediately attached the silencer to the end of Black Bass. The well-crafted item fixed with a pleasant snap.

The test site was next to Bottleneck’s smithy in Gaza City.

Leeha aimed the rifle at a tree branch he chose as an arbitrary target. The distance was merely 80 meters.

‘Let’s fire a shot.’

Phahaang—–!!

The branch Leeha aimed at disappeared without a trace.

At least the accuracy at close range was satisfactory. Most importantly, he was pleased that the silencer remained intact.

The fact that the path for the bullet inside the silencer matched precisely with Black Bass’s barrel meant, “See, I told you the sound is still loud. Is there no way to reduce that damned air-burst sound?”

“Hehe, that’s what I was saying. This alone won’t suffice. But, it’s impressive for what it is. This level of sound wouldn’t carry farther than 2 meters.”

“Wonderful?”

Leeha nodded to himself. The sound of gas expanding and pushing air, similar to a sonic boom, had a high probability of being heard beyond 1 meter.

“In a battlefield full of gunfire, it might not be heard, but this is Middle Earth. The sound, akin to the popping of a sonic boom, would be quickly picked up.”

The noise wasn’t loud, but its unique characteristics meant there was a high risk of detection. But what if the distance exceeds 1.56 meters? Beyond 21 meters? Or even beyond 3 meters?

Leeha was confident. A special sniper attack that could annihilate multiple enemies would certainly become possible.

“What use is being kilometers away! If that’s the range, the bullet’s speed would take priority, so there’s no need to worry! Wasn’t this made for close range effectiveness?”

“Ah, that’s the point. Did you forget what I mentioned? There’s something else that needs to be added.”

“Something else?”

“Yes. The process must either reduce the bullet’s propellant or lower the bullet head’s weight. [Subsonic Bullets].”

Because the bullet is sent flying too quickly, the gas moves through the air, pushing it outward.

Meaning, if the bullet can’t be sent out too quickly, the gas will naturally lose its force.

After losing its force, if the moving speed is less than Mach 1, a sonic boom would not occur.

Leeha had told Bottleneck this at some point, but it seemed certain the latter, consumed with his work on the silencer, did not remember.

To Leeha, just having made a reliable silencer was satisfying enough.

Improving the bullet would be quick work with Bottleneck’s skill.

Of course, what Leeha did not know at the time was that perfecting the improved bullet would require countless trials and errors.

The creation of the subsonic bullet with reduced speed was accomplished only this morning, after an additional day’s work.

Hardly had they finished this task (?) when news arrived from Blaugrunn, left in Juma City for intelligence gathering.

-Leeha-nim! The Castilla Knight Order will move to the Black Cranes paleo Tribe this evening!

-Nice! … But wait, this evening?

-Yes. I’m not sure of the exact time, but it’s definitely tonight.
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Without a moment’s hesitation, Leeha quickly gathered his items and hurried off in a rush.

The Black Crane paleo and the Red Goat paleo had already reached a state beyond mere distrust of humans to an outright loathing of humanity. Convincing them, who had achieved the first-ever -100% affinity towards all of humanity in the New World, was never going to be an easy task.

Had Leeha not been among the first to set foot on the New World, or if he had not been the one to rescue Hudid from his hallucinatory state caused by Bluebeard, this operation would have definitely failed.

“How dare you ask us to trust you, after all the havoc your kind has wreaked upon us?” Hudid’s eyes were already ablaze. The flames in his gaze alone seemed powerful enough to incinerate Leeha on the spot. Though Blaugrunn was ready to protect him at any moment, Leeha did not want his protection. If he couldn’t convince them with words and trust, being protected by force would make him no different from the users who earn the “Subjugation” achievement.

“Not all humans are like that. I, more than anyone, am definitely not. Those fools don’t even understand the gravity of their actions. So…”

“You’ll personally sort them out?”

“Yes. More than anything, I don’t want to see you getting ‘subjugated.’ After all, it’s an achievement I don’t have.”

“What did you just say?”

“I said, I want to protect you, heh, that’s right. Please believe me. I’ve come to help you.”

“I have no doubts about your skills, considering you once shot off my toe from a distance. But can you really betray your own kind and still survive?”

Hudid twitched his long leg. One toe was noticeably shorter than the others, a result of Leeha’s sniping that had left its mark.

“Right. If they found out I attacked, it would undoubtedly create a huge uproar. I might even be constantly on the run.”

“But you’re willing to take that risk to help us?”

“Yes.”

“Why?”

Hudid tilted his head, wondering why anyone would go through such trouble without a clear incentive. But that was a story for yesterday.

Leeha looked at Hudid and pulled out two items.

“Because they won’t know it was me.”

The silencer and the subsonic bullet had their first real test. Leeha proved the effectiveness of these items to them.

“This, is this from that time-”


“Eldest. Quiet.”

“-Yes! Guardian deity.”

The effect was evident enough to make the Black Crane paleo, Hudid’s eldest, stutter in surprise. Quieter than a whistle.

Quieter than the sound of their own footsteps on the new grass. The combination of the silencer and the subsonic bullet demonstrated an ultimate decibel reduction, and from that alone, Hudid understood completely what Leeha was saying.

“If I can keep hidden in my abode, it would be easy to expose that sharp-nosed one.”

“Thank you for your trust.”

“Our hearts are with you. Everyone, get ready. Humans come at dusk.”

Flap – flap!

Hudid took to the sky immediately. The Black Crane paleos dispersed around, casting fleeting glances at Leeha. The gunfire was quieter than the sound of a sword slicing through the air. For the Black Crane paleos, who had either seen or experienced Leeha’s attacks at least once, it was an unbelievably silent affair.

“I can’t feel the waves of mana at all. To think that this is possible without silence magic… Leeha is truly unpredictable. Where does he keep getting such knowledge from?”

“Ah! It wasn’t by chance that I became Blaugrunn’s partner. Save your admiration for later, and please gather intelligence once we’re back in Juma City.”

Magic or skills weren’t the tools here.

It was the path where only the performance of items enhanced the utility of a sniper.

Leeha knew intuitively. Today, in battle, he would undergo a transformation as a sniper.

“A great sniper is one whose presence was never even known. Isn’t that what they say? A famous sniper on the battlefield is virtually asking to be killed quickly.

A perfect snipe is when neither friend nor foe realizes the sniper existed.

‘Though I mentioned it today to the Black Crane paleo tribe… if this weren’t the battlefield-‘

Leeha shivered. Thus, 4 hours later, on the outskirts of the Red Wood, in the Black Crane paleo tribe, a true [Shadow Hitman] was born. The annihilation of the Castilla Knights never made it outside. There were no survivors to tell the tale.

Not to mention, the residual light body lasts less than 15 minutes.

Since no one knew what had happened within the Black Crane paleo tribe, another knightly order of Minis, the Brytax, was approaching the tribe from a location about 1.56m away, oblivious to everything.


“Leeha, we’ve arrived.”

“Okay, I see it.”

Leeha was hidden in the nest of Hudid.

After a wide encirclement of the paleo tribe’s outskirts, a pattern of synchronized action ensued.

Despite trying to hide and move, he couldn’t escape Leeha’s eyes, who already knew the ‘route’ and was watching it.

“Should be thanking Lark for this, right? If he only teaches us one attack pattern, they’re all going to want to use just that.”

In other words, if that path is blocked, there’s no need to worry about the others!

I wonder if the Virtue Knights cleared it with this strategy too?

Lark, wielding the [Rainbow Sword], Leeha thought they must have chosen a different distribution of forces than regular knightly orders.

“But the overall framework can’t change. Stop the black cranes from flying, the elites deal with the spirits to buy time, while the rest of the order subdues the regular paleos.”

Once the system is understood, there should be variations. Watching the Brytax Knights move without a single deviation from the Castilla Knights, Leeha shook his head in disapproval.

“Being stubborn is different from being stupid. Now that everyone’s surrounded, in about… five minutes or so?”

Leeha rummaged through his bag for a new magazine.

Its shape was not much different. To differentiate from the standard magazines, however, the color was changed.

“Heh, reducing the gunpowder is one thing, but this method is even better. There’s also an expectation of increased destructive power.”

The direction chosen by Leeha and Bottleneck for the [Subsonic Rounds] was to manufacture and mount thicker bullet heads. Reducing gunpowder required more delicate adjustments and risked losing the initial destructive power.

‘But this method-‘

“The mana net is ready. We’ll start soon. The direction is– yes, I already know the direction.” Leeha combined the magazine. The mana net is a special item that stays invisible until activated.

But what was mounted on Black Bes?

Leeha peered through the “scope.”


“It was the eyes of the frozen ostriches that even revealed Blaugrunn’s invisibility. Adding this to it… [Mana Perception]”

Swoosh-

Switching to normal vision was also an option at any time.

It boasted performance comparable to a thermal infrared camera combined.

Leeha extended the barrel of Black Bes outside the Hudid nest.

What stuck out of the firm ‘comrade’, less than 500m in length, was a pitch-black barrel.

Of course, there was no one in this world who could recognize it in an instant.

“Blaugrunn, I’m well-hidden. Starting now.”

“Got it.”Leeha aimed his crosshairs at a figure stealthily moving with a mana net in hand. Then, he pulled the trigger.

Pft-.

All that was heard was a sound reminiscent of air leaking from a balloon, brief and subtle. A knight from the Brytax Order, holding the mana net, fell dead. It was an instant death with no time for screams, and the fallen couldn’t provide any clues about their attacker. Add the thick underbrush of the Red Woods to the equation?

Slipping quietly, Leeha could see the body collapse into the bushes. This was precisely why he hadn’t initiated his attack earlier. The sound of the falling body could only be masked when the others were moving.

Pft- Pft- Pft-.

Within moments, he had dealt with four more knights wielding mana nets, waiting for Hudid’s roar. Once they were out in the open, the trajectory of the bullets made it possible to infer where the attack came from. “Now, would the Black Crane please give us a shout~”

Hudid, following the plan, shouted as agreed. The Black Crane paleos began their transformation, everything proceeding exactly as Leeha had anticipated. All that remained was to attack the knights ‘at the right moment’ during the paleos’ assault.

“Block them! Black Cranes are not that strong! Overpower them with force! Advance in an attack formation!”

“Huh, they all sound the same,” Leeha murmured to herself, nodding at the sound strategy. However, it was merely a second-best option.

“Suspect battlefields are best avoided. Stubbornness won’t change that…”

A knight within Leeha’s scope positioned his shield and sword.

Swiftly blocking an attack from a Black Crane paleo’s beak, he swung his sword.

Pft-.

A part of the shot successfully severed, and as he stepped forward for an additional strike, he turned to lead. The small hole in his side was the cause of his demise, unnoticed by anyone around, including the 448 users.

“Alright, let’s clean up this mess,” said Leeha, as cute (?) puffing sounds continued around him. They were reminiscent of living Black Bass whispering the breath of death to their enemies, a sound akin to breathing. The Brytax Order, nearly equal in number to the Castilla Order, was annihilated in 11 minutes and 27 seconds.

The brave Castilla knights could barely enjoy the victory, noting, “Even a lesser order couldn’t last long against us!” realizing that an entire knight order had been decimated in less than 15 minutes.

[Your level has increased.]

[Trust with all creatures in the New Continent Erika has been established.]

“Oh, look at that! Trust, of all things.”

The system window was unexpected for Leeha. No specific quest had been undertaken. It was merely an act of goodwill, of greater purpose. “Does it mean that my choices weren’t wrong after all? Would Alexander or Leeha Jiwon notice this?”

Leeha pondered for a moment. Alexander was logged in, Leeha Jiwon logged out. Abandoning the idea of contacting Alexander, Leeha shrugged.

“No, I need to look into this more. It’s too early to jump to conclusions without knowing what it means. Being informed by the system window alone is a privilege comparable to the one given by Middle Earth itself.”

In a game where every choice and the flow of the world are in the players’ hands, receiving hints through a ‘system window’ was something else. Leeha opened his character window to check his stats and rotated his shoulders.

“Ugh… two sessions in one day are tough. My shoulders are stiff. Blaugrunn! Come here and help me with a massage!” Leeha had become the first user to start building ‘trust with spirits’, now exploiting a dragon for massages.

※ ※

“It seems like the number of knights is decreasing, doesn’t it?”

“They didn’t go back to their homeland either… especially the numbers from Minis’ order have drastically reduced.”

“As much as the days we have left to defend are few, we should be joining forces now more than ever. This is too much!”

Complaints near the [Divine Staff] were growing. Since Fieli and the Shazrashianians were already enemies or in unfriendly terms with Minis, their stance was expected. However, even allies from Craven became increasingly uncomfortable with the dwindling numbers of Minis’ knights.

[Sanctification]

Objective:

1. Secure the Divine Staff in New Continent Erika within 15 days (Completed)

2. After securing the Divine Staff, provide protection for 21 days (5 days remaining).

The remaining time until the Divine Staff activates and forms a contract with the divine spirit is only 5 days.

“These guys, they make us do all the dirty work while they enjoy themselves somewhere? They only showed up for the first three days and haven’t been seen since.”

Whether they were illusions or real beings, Toon and the monster mobs appeared here every day for the past 16 days, changing locations each time. As a result, other knight orders were unable to properly complete quests or hunt because they were tied down to this place.

Therefore, the remaining knights of Minis near the [Divine Staff] had no choice but to hear all sorts of suspicions and gossip. At the center of it all was, of course, the Minis Defense Knight Order, led by Virtue.
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“…What about the Adelar Knights?”

“No contact. These guys, what the hell happened? Are they all really dead?”

Lark asked, to which Pung shook his head in response.

Lark clenched his jaw so tightly it felt like his teeth might shatter as he spoke.

“The Eagle Crest Knights, Adelar, they’re as skilled as us. And to think they were taken down going after just a gorilla paleo…?”

“It’s not just them. What about the vanished Castilla? Or Brytax? Those brutes swinging their war hammers were ferocious! But to say they couldn’t catch a Black Crane? Over three hundred from Castilla came, only to be annihilated by the Black Crane! They could crack an adult dragon’s skull, but—”

“I know. Just keep it down.”

Lark, the White Commander of the Virtue Knights and the chief commander in the new continent. At his word, the finance manager had no choice but to shut up.

It was clear from his face alone that Lark was in an exceptionally low mood.

Except for Shin Nara, users who have attained such a lofty position in various knight orders can be counted on one hand.

Even he, with his insight and skills, was utterly baffled by the current situation, naturally infuriating him.

“What the hell happened? Over six knight orders have been wiped out already. Now there are even those from the Red Goat Tribe getting annihilated. It wouldn’t make sense for such rubbish to be dispatched to the new continent.”

Wasn’t it the policy to select only the elite for dispatch? It was only natural to send the skilled for the honor and prestige of the nation of Minis. Yet, these skilled ones have failed despite having the numerical advantage and even knowing specialized strategies?

“No, it’s not just failure.”

Annihilation.

Not a single person returned alive to report what happened? Does that even make sense?

Lark was utterly unable to comprehend. The problem is there’s no sign of any large force moving to kill them.

“Sacred Knights and Byulcho have been here all along?”

“Yes. Even when the leader was absent. Because they were specially monitoring, much like Shin Nara.”

“But still, this situation. What about Lee Jiwon and Pei Wu?”


“The Hwangryong did come by occasionally, but there was no sight of Pei Wu. And Lee Jiwon hasn’t shown his face from the start.”

“If there was any possibility, it would be that Lee Jiwon and Pei Wu of Pibel were moving at Shin Nara’s request…”

“Do you really think so?”

At Pung’s question, Lark shook his head.

“No.”

It was his hypothesis, yet it lacked evidence.

The mainstay of obtaining and protecting [Divine Staffs] were knight orders and guilds. It’s true that the Hwangryong, the largest guild of Biviel, supported them in many ways, directly and indirectly.

However, Pei Wu was not there.

Nor was Lee Jiwon, who plays without a guild.

But Lark did not jump to conclusions. To decide it was their doing just because they were unseen is not a leader’s way of judgment.

“It’s better to assume they are somewhere leveling up. With their level nearing 300, not 200, there’s no reason for them to waste time disbanding the knight orders from their homeland at Shin Nara’s request.”

It makes more sense if the Ezwen Paladins, receiving a covert directive from the Vatican for reasons of diminishing the alliance’s solidarity, were the ones who moved. “Who exactly is it? If it’s neither Sacred nor Byulcho, we must consider a third party. And that implies an intrusion by a powerhouse capable of dealing with entire orders from Minis… Aaaaah,” Lark gritted his teeth.

While Minis’s other knight orders were frolicking about, Sacred and Byulcho went to stop them, and in the meantime, Virtue planned to conquer other paleo tribes one by one that had not been [Subdued] yet.

But what is this mess?

The premise that Minis’s knight orders were supposed to stir didn’t happen, thus even Virtue is stuck here without being able to move.

“Who is it? Who’s thwarting us?”

Could it be one of the Rankers?

Has it been the work of Igor and Zar, from whom no news has come among the users for months?”Or perhaps an outsider? Among the outsiders, those with such skills—”

Suddenly, a face surfaced in Lark’s mind.

A somewhat stoic face. Someone with an unreasonable range, but who hadn’t managed to properly attack Ton due to certain circumstances.


“Ha Leeha?”

However, he soon shook his head.

If it was before he had acted together with Leeha, he might have even thought of Leeha as the culprit. But hadn’t they advanced together, even to the [Divine Staff]?

“His gunfire is no joke. If he had targeted the knights from our homeland near the paleos—”

The other knights stationed around to maintain control would have definitely heard the sound.

Dozens, if not hundreds of gunshots, were not a common situation. Had such an event occurred, news would have reached his ears by now.

“Huuu… Well, worrying about it is just as frustrating anyway. In the end, we’ll have to see what happens after the ‘Holy Spirit’ or whatever it is gets involved.”

Lark shrugged.

In the end, there was no answer to be found in worrying without information. Regrettably, postponing things was also a decision.

“What if the resistance from Sacrid becomes even fiercer by then?”

Pung asked with a worried look.

“By then, there’s nothing we can do. Since the original goal of sanctification has been achieved—”

Lark simply smiled. “Whatever happens afterward doesn’t matter, does it?”

He fiddled with the handle of his sword. His gaze was fixed on the Sacred Knights, unaware of whatever Shin Nara and Kijung were discussing behind his back.

“So? You really think Leeha is doing this?”

“Exactly. Seriously, what is he even doing? Oh, come on—No, no. As much as it’s Leeha, it’s unbelievable. Six have already been completely taken down. Plus, if he’s currently engaging another, that would mean he’s taken down seven knight orders by himself. Minis’ Knights are not like those amateurs from the old Rising Sun!”

“Ugh, I know! That’s why I’m dying to see it! What kind of trick is Leeha using?” Shin Nara asked, urging for answers, but only Kijung’s sigh could be heard.

She turned her head to look at the formation of the Byulcho Brigade. Kijung was visibly frustrated, grasping her head and stomping her feet.

“Not even telling me, how is he doing it?”

Even Shin Nara and Kijung couldn’t grasp the secrets of Leeha.


With the silencer and subsonic bullets, the cohesion of the knight orders near the ‘Divine Staff’ would never fall.

Leeha’s unseen efforts were unacknowledged, which was a source of regret for him.

Phew!

Luckily, the system of Middle Earth recognized his achievements!

[Your level has increased.]

[A trust relationship with all spirits in Erika Continent is established.]

Of course, this was much more beneficial for Leeha than simple compliments.

“Nice. Leveling up like this is sweet.”

With the final shot that took down the last member of the seventh Minis Knight Order, Leeha nodded as he opened his character window.

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 233(0%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 136

HP: 8,050(5,635) / MP: 2,365

Stats:

Strength 609(+524)

Agility 3,600(+1,292)

Intelligence 420(+275)

Stamina 291(+198)

Mind 125(+115)

Remaining Stat Points: 5

“Slow and steady increases, but still at 233. Hmm… Well, considering it’s increased by more than 5 in just a few days, it’s a tremendous speed.”

Leeha invested more stat points into agility as he reloaded his magazine.

“That damn rainbow bastard—nah, considering he’s only subdued the gorilla paleo so far, should I consider that fortunate?”

Having three paleo tribes to take care of was one of the few advantages that allowed Leeha to expose himself less.

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi, what about those scouting around?”

Blaugrunn: I’m still waiting in that spot. I’ll let you know if there’s any movement.”

Leeha:Okay. Once we catch that one, there won’t be any coming back today~ Let’s really go hunting.”

Blaugrunn: Real hunting?”

Leeha: Yes. Beyond 3,500m, searching for monsters above level 250. In order to break the fifth quest of Black Bass, Leehas fully confident again.

At that time, not a soul yet knew that a user wandering the New Continent had discovered something utterly ludicrous.

“Huff, huff-”

On a cliff, a rock was oddly wrapped around a creature’s feet.

Climbing it, human hands were fidgeting.

Sticking out his head from the precipice,

the one who climbed up the cliff was none other than Fernand.

“Ugh, so high. Thought I was going to die because of creatures that are neither griffins nor harpies.” He retrieved his whip that he had coiled around. Like pressing the button on a tape measure, the whip wrapped around the rock swiftly shrunk and coiled back.

“If only that, which I saw from the other side, the World Tree’s forest, wasn’t corrupted, then I wouldn’t have struggled this much.” Standing atop the cliff, he retraced his path. The trees standing out in the distance were definitely the World Trees.

Even though they were now completely tainted and not serving their purpose, the corrupted World Trees, recognizable even in the Old Continent, were unmistakable to Fernand.

Of course, this forest of World Trees was once fervently roamed by Leeha, seeking its fruits.

In other words, Fernand had just managed to cross the central part dividing the New Continent from east to west!

“Considering the southern part was a desert and the north was icy, it seems I’ve come quite deep into the inland where life is sustainable. Since the Red Wood and the western coast are on this side-”

Unbeknownst to him, this meant he was the first user to set foot in the ‘eastern’ part of the New Continent.

Only after he updated his map while observing the surrounding terrain did he finally get up and turn his head.

The awe he felt just after climbing up, and the task of retracing his path, had momentarily blinded him to something. Or, even if he had seen it, it would have been unbelievable. Only then did something unbelievable catch the edge of Fernand’s vision.

“What is that?”

Fernand squinted his eyes.

Where is this?

He was sure that no other user had ventured further than this, given how far removed it was. Moreover, he had passed through several paleo tribes on his way here.

Living in their own established territories, they chose a path of coexistence with the environment without harming the surrounding natural setting. Hence, in such a barren cliff with not even a speck of useful resource, that thing should not exist.

“A typical wooden house, like one might see in the villages of the Old Continent, caught Fernand’s eye.

Smoke billowed softly from a small chimney, welcoming him.

“[Background Merge], [Feather Sneak]”

Fernand immediately used his skills. Unlike invisibility, it was a type of stealth skill that naturally blended him into the background. And another skill that made his footsteps silent as a feather, erasing any trace of his presence.

For Fernand, who often explored dungeons and historical sites packed with traps that activate under the slightest weight, these skills were indispensable.

‘This isn’t an archaeological site, but- At this level, I won’t be caught.’ Stealth and erasing footsteps didn’t mean invisibility.

Meaning, if someone tried to look, they could certainly see him. But Fernand couldn’t risk more.

“If there are ‘monsters’ nearby, seeing me would mean they see the background through me. I hope there are such creatures.”

Except for a few species like the paleos, sensitive to 480-degree scents, Fernand had managed to deceive most but remained vigilant.

The incongruity of a wooden house placed in the midst of the New Continent had him on edge.

Despite walking on a stony terrain, Fernand’s footsteps made no sound.

The smoke rising from the wooden house continued unceasingly.

“Someone’s lit a fire… ‘”

Could it be that they’re preparing a meal?

It was indeed a sight reminiscent of the scenery seen in the villages of the old continent!
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“Hmm? There’s a sound:

It is now about 150 yards to the wooden house. Since there were no monsters other than the wooden house on top of the cliff, he was able to concentrate quite well on the sounds that were coming through.

Fernand slowed his pace and crouched slightly.

Though he had used the skills of blending into the background and sneaking, some monsters sensitive to presence might still detect him. It was only natural to approach as stealthily as possible unless one was invisible.

‘Laughter? I hear laughter. That means it’s not a monster. Such laughter can only be made by a humanoid. Could it be a paleo?”

Could the creatures he saw during his approach, resembling a mix between Griffins and Harpies, actually be paleos?

Were these paleos, emitting sounds of human laughter, somehow merging with some flying beasts and transforming?

“No, then does that mean that place is the abode of spirits? Were the flying creatures normal members of a paleo tribe?

Fernand shook his head.

It was all speculation at this point. Without confirmation, certainty was impossible.

After all, he is an ‘adventurer’, one of the players known as [Pioneering King], whose curiosity is satisfied only by seeing with his own eyes and verifying by stepping forth.

Finally, Fernand approached the outer walls of the wooden house.

The window that came into view tempted him to peek inside. However, that was a move only novice adventurers would make.”

Fernand focused on the sound instead.

-“Tonight’s dinner is~ ta-da! Griffonia roast! Children in their growing years should eat at least two legs, right?!

-“Even the hungriest person would feel sick after eating two of those.

-“Hm, honey? Did you finish speaking? You mean you don’t want to eat it, right?

-“As I’ve always said! It’s good to care for our son, but overeating won’t do any good.”

…What are they talking about?)

A woman’s and a man’s voice. Could this not be the abode of spirits? Fernand wondered.


There could be two spirits. A male and a female spirit living together.

‘No, wait, they just mentioned ‘honey’ and ‘son’.”

Family

Fernand was certain. This house was home to a family.

And based on the language and familial love, it definitely wasn’t a monster’s dwelling.

“The smoke from before was actual cooking. Gryphonia, could it be the creature, part Griffin part Harpie, I saw earlier?” Fernand remembered the enormous size.

To eat ‘two legs’ of something bigger than an average horse, as the male entity suggested, one might indeed feel unwell afterwards.

“A creature with a big appetite. Could it be similar to a giant? Maybe a Gorilla paleo or Medjay paleo?”

He nodded, refocusing on the sound.

-“Oh right, honey? Haven’t got much to say?

Bang-

Fernand jolted at the sudden noise but wasn’t discovered.

‘The sound of slamming the table-‘

Immediately, an angry female voice was heard.

-“Bringing up such topics at the dinner table, ruining the meal. You want to get hit?

-“No, no! I mentioned that the [Divine Staff] was activated recently. So, that means he’s bound to come looking.

-“I don’t know, don’t know. And you know as well… there’s been no sign from our son. He’s likely to come soon. I want to leave before that happens. What do you think?

-“It would be better during the day. Even if he doesn’t come… that person is on this continent anyway. I really despise getting more involved.

-“I feel the same, sigh, if only there was a way.”

Fernand heard a sigh from the female entity following.


“They know about the [Divine Staff]. And what’s this ‘their side’? Are they our people? Waiting for a meeting with the Vatican’s men?”

For Fernand, this line of thought was only natural.Not as a monster that stumbles around, but fluently using the language, if you are aware of the recent event of the “Divine Staff” activation?

They could possibly be observers sent from the Vatican.

“But if that were the case, it’s unlikely the Pope wouldn’t have mentioned anything to me…”

The problem lies with Fernand being associated with Ezwen.

Though he always roamed around, considering Fernand’s relatively high position within the Ez religious nation, would this have been kept secret even from him? If it was such a significant mission, they would have rather had Fernand assist with it.

Above all, they had arrived here first.

Merely providing the geographic information of this place to Fernand could grant the Ez religious nation overwhelming topographical intelligence. “So if that’s not it… Damn, I didn’t want to let out the flow of mana, but…”

Eventually, Fernand had to decide. If he can’t judge the situation solely on sound?

He needs to see.

Taking out a magnifying glass from his bag, he carefully positioned its lens against the exterior wall of a wooden house.

And whispered quietly,

“[Show me the truth].”

The skill name [Show me the truth] was activated.

An additional option of the legendary item “The Magnifying Glass of Truth” that Fernand possessed, was triggered.

With a very brief casting, the skill was immediately activated.

The lens of the small magnifying glass he held soon revealed the interior beyond the wall. “Eh, what? Real humans? Really?” He was even more bewildered seeing through the lens. It was literally humans, not some paleo or other beings, but just- just humans! Not players, but real living humans of the year 1480s? Associated with Ezwell?

The truth was mind-boggling. The skill [Show me the truth] was not only used for seeing through walls or peering into locked places.

It reveals everything within—in-depth truths and lies, hidden identities included. Therefore, he was able to know for sure.

At least, two people were ‘completely human’.


But on this side—here lies another.

Yet, there was another person.

Seated at the table with a hood pulled over, a different aura was slowly emerging from this person.

“There’s a dark aura. But it’s not mana – those of mana have a completely dark exterior. What is this then? The figure appears human through the magnifying glass, but a dark aura is just seeping out.”

There is a clear association with the aura of mana.

However, compared to the boisterous male and the lively female figure, this one neither spoke nor acted much, making it impossible to glean more information.

“First, I’ll save the view seen through the magnifying glass. Everything viewed through this lens is capable of being saved and retrieved.”

Fernand intended to consult the Pope and the high-ranking members of the Ez, possibly about who was present here, to determine if they are allies or foes, hence the premonition that he must not reveal his presence just yet.

“What’s this?”

Click=

However, at that moment, Fernand made eye contact with the female figure.

As if the lens knew exactly where, from what position or angle it was observing, the woman precisely looked back at that spot! “Honey? We have an uninvited guest, right?”

“A scroll?”

Fernand hurriedly retrieved a scroll from his bag to use it. The paper ruffled noisily, but his body was not transported. “What? There’s no spatial lock, but why-” Thud, the door of the wooden house opened at that moment. What came out were the female figure and the arguing male figure.

Fernand prayed.

Hoping the skill to blend into the background would work on these people.

Hoping not to be discovered while blended in.

“Hahah, interesting. This guy, using insect-like techniques, huh? Honey! Come look! Some brazen guy approached our house without invisibility!”

“Gotcha! So that’s why the mana didn’t stir! Oh my, who are you? Who sent you here?”

Fernand’s prayers were ruthlessly shattered.

The male and female who came out had completely perceived Fernand.

“I don’t know how the space was locked, but I must escape. If there’s a chance, it’s in the blink of an instant, right down the cliff.”

Even though the teleport scroll didn’t work, there were several emergency escape methods. The most reliable was the way Fernand himself had come up.

Whipping to a rock and immediately jumping, burying a hacken simultaneously as the whip is retrieved, connecting it to the carabiner at his waist in an instant!”Use that as a rope and descend quickly!”

Fernand had been employing such tactics against monsters in places like cliffs. If he could fully utilize his abilities from Middle Earth, he could perform all these actions simultaneously as he jumped down. That’s what he believed himself capable of!

“Alright, let’s go-”

No sooner had Fernand finished his thought than he reached for his whip.

Or, tried to.

Three gunshots rang out in quick succession.

One bullet hit the handle of the whip, one struck Fernand’s belt, and one the brim of Fernand’s hat.

The hat was blown off, revealing his face completely, the whip was sent flying, and the belt, which held various climbing gear, was undone in the thick brush.

In the time Fernand had moved his hand from his thigh to his waist to grab the whip—

In less than 0.1 seconds, his opponent had “seen” and “reacted” to Fernand’s movement.

“Phew- playing cute, are we? Where do you think you’re going?”

“Uh-huh, you can’t even teleport here anyway. You’ve lost all your gear, so what are you going to do now? Fight us? Before that, shouldn’t you tell us who sent you and how you got here?”

The male figure blew the smoke from his gun, while the female figure, finding something amusing, continuously giggled, looking at Fernand.

Fernand, astonished, could only consider the absurd rapid-fire and the item that the female figure had effortlessly lifted.

Seeing her impossibly long weapon, Fernand thought of someone.

“Ki, Kidd… and Leeha…” Muttering their names like a groan, Fernand was reminded of items strongly associated with Kidd and Leeha.

Though it was unlikely they would come to his aid, at least he wasn’t alone in his thoughts!

Just as Fernand attempted to curse Kidd and Leeha under his breath, their demeanor changed.

“The heck? You know Kidd? Leeha’s friend, huh? Really? Yes?”

Fernand was briefly taken aback. What was this now?

The words were so friendly, he even wondered, “Could this person be Leeha’s mother?”

The male figure too shrugged and tilted his head.

“Kidd… I definitely saw him that time.”

“Yep! I didn’t see but I’ve heard of him. Browles’s apprentice, right? My hubby mentioned, said there’s an interesting guy!”

“Definitely more amusing than my dimwit dongsaeng, for sure. They still have a long way to go, though. The guy following in honey’s footsteps, that guy?”

“Yeah. That dude tried to negotiate with me, it was so thrilling!” The female’s body shivered with excitement, her eyes gleaming.

Fernand couldn’t grasp the situation.

“You know Kidd-ssi and Leeha-ssi? Using the same weapons and ‘dongsaeng’ is… Ah- Ahh!?”

Fernand had been privy to all the stories from the Vatican.

Hence, he was aware.

Of those who had appeared at the last stronghold of evil. All humans, including Alexander and Bailephus, had tried to secure the place but were easily defeated by a third party!

“Matan’s Shooter… it was these people!”

Fernand encountered Mr. Brown and Miss Elizabeth.

Thud, thud.

Walking towards him, Brown struck Fernand’s face with his pistol.

Before he could even scream from the immense pain, his face was already covered by a thick mask.

“Uhnggh ergh.” With a groan, Fernand barely managed to open his eyes. What had hit him? In an instant, something flashed, and his vision darkened. Soon after, a potion was forced into his mouth, gulp by gulp, slightly restoring his vision, yet the darkness persisted. A thick, light-impenetrable mask covered his head.

He was forcibly seated, bound so tightly that resistance was out of the question.

“Does it hurt? Sorry. My dear hit a bit too hard, didn’t expect it to crack that easily, kid! You look like an adventurer, but you’re too frail to roam around, aren’t you?”

Fernand chose not to open his mouth.

But there was something unmistakably ‘aunt-like’ about the way she spoke.

It was true that Bua felt irritated by such a way of expressing apology while still not being able to say sorry.

“Are you… scared?” Fernang barely managed to ask, opening his mouth.

The laughter of the female, Elizabeth, echoed briefly inside the house.

(To be continued…)
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“Would you be alive if that was the case?”

Fernand nodded momentarily upon hearing her audacious words. Was it really like receiving a ‘solid punch’?

‘But it dropped to nearly zero out of ten? What kind of strength does one need to have for that…’ Fernand paused his thoughts and shook his head.

‘It’s not that important anyway,’ he thought, deciding it was better to just attribute it to “Matan’s Shooter”.

“So… the reason you tracked us down?” Above all, it was Brown, a male entity’s deep voice that-hyungke into Fernand’s musings, leaving him no room to maneuver. Fernand quickly shook his head, realizing these beings had some serious misunderstanding.

“Seriously, am I being interrogated right now?!”

“This guy, feels bad for hitting us once and thinks it’s okay to just stand there! Who are you calling an auntie, huh? Ever seen an auntie this pretty and young?!”

“Keep it in, honey! If you hit him one more time, this guy’s going to die! And having a son does make one an auntie, so what’s your point-”

“What did you say, dear?”

“No, I mean, let’s just calm down and sit. Okay?”

Listening to the quarrel between the male and female entities, Fernand couldn’t help but laugh. Their absurdly incompatible personalities, poor choice of location, and yet knowing they were “Matan’s Shooter,” made no sense to him.

“This reminds me of Leeha. Is this what the atmosphere among Musketeers is usually like?”

Fernand asked with a lighter heart. The bickering couple quieted down.

“Answer the questions we ask. Just because you claim to know Kidd and Leeha doesn’t mean you’re not an enemy to us.”

“I truly am not your enemy. If you are doubtful, you are welcome to search my bags entirely. My identification is inside. I am an adventurer affiliated with the Ezwen Church, wandering to gather as much geographical information about the Erika Continent as possible.” The [Pioneering King] introduced himself modestly.

After a moment of rustling sounds, Fernand felt tickled by their murmured discussions. Though he couldn’t understand everything, he could tell his suspicion had been cleared, evidenced by the removal of his mask. “So, you happened upon this place by chance?”

“Yes. I came near because I was curious about the presence of human residences in a place far beyond my imagination.”

“Well, expecting someone to knock and ask, ‘Who’s there?’ in a place like this was off the cards. The fact that you used only techniques not detectable by mana sensing was impressive enough.” It wasn’t just about having spatial locking in place all the time. Fernand imagined being shot on sight if he had used a skill categorized as ‘magic’ to approach their home. Given their abilities, it was almost a certainty.

“Thank you.” Fernand bowed his head while still bound.

“Well, then. How are things lately? Your continent must be facing quite the hardship too?”


“Yes… but we are managing to find solutions.” The significant reason for the increase in players’ difficulty was failing to cleanse all sources of evil magic. The nominal boss that hindered the last cleansing of the source was “Toon.”

However, unknown to Fernand, the real boss, one that no one could face at the source of the evil magic, was indeed “Matan’s Shooter.” Thinking about the irony that they were causing their own suffering, Fernand found it difficult to piece together their true identities.

Was their rambling conversation meant to distract and confuse him? However, even Fernand wasn’t an easy user to deal with. He could catch on to any oddities in their conversation immediately after the masks were removed.

‘Their son is missing.’ While he had seen three through the magnifying glass, now only the couple remained visible. The son, shrouded in a black aura and wearing a hood, was now nowhere to be seen. ‘Did they deliberately hide him?’ Fernand wanted to inquire about the son, about Matan’s Shooter, but he found himself unable to speak.Given their unpredictable patterns, asking even one question could have cost him his life.

“Excuse me, may I have your names?”

“You already know, don’t you?” Brown replied brusquely.

At this question, Fernand nodded. “If you are who I think you are, then you would be Mr. Brown and Ms. Elizabeth.”

The traitors of the Second Human-Demon War.

Fernand did not phrase it that way.

However, being able to access the royal archives of Fibiel, it was unlikely that Fernand did not know their names.

The reason Fernand asked their names was singular.

“Then the other one is…”

“No need to be curious, unnecessarily—” Just as Brown was about to show his irritation, a door inside the wooden house opened.

All three of them turned their heads simultaneously. The person standing in front of the opened door was recognizable to Fernand.

“Son 1480!”

Son 1480 was swaying, his hand pressed against his forehead.

“Kyle!”

The call was urgent.

Fernand instinctively knew it was his son.

“Darling!”


“Damn it, what’s going to happen now—what’s your name?”

As Brown moved to support the staggering Kyle, he glanced towards Fernand.

“It’s Fernand.”

“Get out. Now! If you’re still in sight in 3 minutes, I’ll have no choice but to kill you.”

“Three minutes—no, first you have to untie me—”

“Damn it!”

Brown, irritated, came closer and untied Fernand. The situation was ajussiar, but with only 3 minutes and no option to teleport, he had to hide.

“Fernand!”

As Fernand was about to depart, a hastily written note was thrust into his hand. “Hurry!”

“I’ll pass this to the Musketeers, but… how do I find you? Should I tell them to come here? Or do you have another hideout?”

Even then, Fernand was trying to lessen the burden on the Musketeers. Of course, it was also to gain hints about new geographical information he was unaware of.

“No. We’re leaving. Now, immediately. Find me.”

“Find you? That won’t be easy… You could at least give me a hint!”

Elizabeth bit her lips tightly, her eyes darting around, which Fernand noticed.

“East. I can’t say more. Hurry!”

Fernand nodded and left the house.

Using the same method he planned for his escape, he tied a whip to a rock and vaulted down the precipice.

Before leaving, he caught Elizabeth’s gaze one last time, understanding something crucial.

“It wasn’t that she didn’t want to tell me. It wasn’t about not disclosing her location merely as a test.”

The nuance Fernand perceived was clear, “I can’t say more.”


Some undisclosed information.

By speaking it out, Fernand faintly understood, she would face ‘certain disadvantages.’

“A bugging device? Or to whom? A device connecting to Bluebeard—no, if that were the case, she wouldn’t have made those strange comments from the start.”

While many things seemed suspicious, the truth Fernand saw with his own eyes was conclusive.The shift in attitude from Brown and Elizabeth began after their son, Kyle, stepped outside in the year 1480. “If it’s related to that?” Whoosh!

As Fernand rapidly descended through rock climbing, his mind was cluttered. Yet, what he had to do was simple.

Fernand: “Leeha-ssi, may I have a moment of your time for a chat?”

Leeha: “Oh, Fernand! It’s been such a long time! What’s up?”

He had to start acting on the request Elizabeth had given him. Even if he was unaware of certain matters, the users related to her, the Three Musketeers, might know.

Fernand sent private messages to Leeha, Kidd, and Luger respectively. The four met at a pub in Juma City. Crash! A chair flew backwards.

Rising aggressively from his seat, Luger drew his weapon forward. “Shall we open that mouth again? Where did you say you saw them?”

“Luger. Now is the time to rely on Fernand’s information. It would be wise for you to sit back down.”

“Kidd’s right. You wanna act like a fool who can’t hold it in?”

Luger’s obsession with “Matan’s Shooter” was naturally infuriating, being arguably the top fan amongst all Middle Earth users. However, this time even Kidd and Leeha could not just sit back and watch. “So, they told us to come find them?”

“Yes.”

“To the east?”

“Ah… The east is the east! What east? Is there a straight path leading to the New Continent’s east?”

Leeha sighed deeply. How could they possibly find them? Kidd and Luger felt equally bewildered. They had wandered the vast lands of the New Continent, where new paleos and monsters resided, but the mere mention of “east” was too vague for them to follow any leads.

Fernand glanced over the Three Musketeers before speaking. “If you go east from Juma City for a while, you’ll come across the forest of the contaminated World Tree. Cross it, over two mountains, and climb the cliff, and you’ll find their whereabouts.”

“Eh? The forest of the contaminated World Tree?”

“Yes.”

As Fernand nodded, Leeha’s eyes widened. It was a simple reaction, but not one to be missed by the other two.

“Don’t tell me. Do you know where it is?”

“This guy! Did you meet them all by yourself?”

“Wait, hold on. I haven’t met them… But I know where it is. There can’t be two World Tree forests, and that place is… the essence of the New Continent,” Leeha spoke with certainty, as it was confirmed by the highest-ranking spirits.

Fernand’s eyes grew wider once more. “I see. Then, doesn’t that narrow down the range quite a bit? At least the ‘east’ they spoke of must be beyond the contaminated World Tree forest!”

Narrowing down the search area was a relief, yet it was still a daunting task. Fernand sounded pleased, but Leeha still felt troubled. “I’ve never been to such a place… And to think that Elizabeth would have us find it. Whether she’s an ally or a foe.”

At least it was clear she wasn’t an immediate enemy to shoot on sight; otherwise, Leeha would have already met his end in the last stronghold. But not being an outright enemy doesn’t mean much. What if she was a unique enemy like Lark, existing in a grey area?

“A trap…? A deceit? No, if that were the case, they wouldn’t have let Fernand go. Wait, is that exactly the twisted way of thinking? They send Fernand back, have us look for them, and then deal with the Three Musketeers in their own way?

And what would they gain from doing that? Besides a death penalty, there’s not much loss, unless—are they aiming for a 48-hour block? That would be ten days in Middle Earth time. With only three days left for the quest to protect [Divine Staff], Leeha’s absence for ten days would cause significant confusion both before and after the quest’s completion, especially since the knight order, blinded by the achievement [Subjugation], might strike at any moment without warning.

While Leeha, Kidd, and Luger were lost in their thoughts, Fernand exclaimed, “Ah!” and pulled something out of his bag.

“And she asked me to give this to you.”

Elizabeth’s last note. The small note placed on the table caught the attention of the Three Musketeers. And in that moment, a hologram window opened right before their eyes.

(To be continued…)
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[Find Me]

Description:

“Brown and I need to move east. It won’t be fast. But it won’t be easy for you to follow us, either. Most importantly, if there’s another being near you, ‘we have no choice but to use it. Come alone. I’m sorry I can only say it like this, but find me. Not for me, nor for the world, but for you.”

– From Elizabeth, one of the Three Musketeers of the previous generation, [Bullseye] Elizabeth is looking for her successor who will inherit her power. Explore the eastern part of the New Continent alone to find her. But, as she warned, you cannot bring anyone with you.

Encounter Reward: ?

Failure Conditions:

1. Death of Elizabeth before the encounter

2. Discovering Elizabeth with another life form

(Party play, summoned creatures, tamed pets strictly prohibited)

Failure: ?

Will you accept?

“What’s this? Elizabeth is-”

“Brown is looking for me?”

Leeha was about to mention the quest content when Luger suddenly spoke out, making him shut his mouth.

The note itself contained no details. It simply triggered a quest pop-up for the current Three Musketeers “upon seeing” the item.

So, it turned out Leeha had received a quest to find Elizabeth, while Luger received a quest looking for Brown.

“Huh? Then what about Kidd? What about [Rapid Fire]? He’s at the Academy, but he doesn’t have any quest?”

“It did appear… Hmm. It doesn’t say to come anywhere.”

“So then what?

“To strictly protect Headmaster Browless.”


Kidd made a puzzled face and shook his head. Leeha and Luger also found it absurd.

Who is supposed to protect whom?

It’s not about Browless protecting Kidd, but it’s about Kidd being instructed to protect Browless?

“So the failure condition is… the Headmaster’s death?”

“That’s right.”

Such a quest wouldn’t appear as a joke.

A quest always implies a possibility of becoming reality!

Leeha reviewed his own quest again. His quest’s failure conditions also clearly stated, “Death of Elizabeth before encountering… It means a serious threat is imminent.”

Especially since Kidd received a quest that simply instructs to protect Browless, this note could not be a plan to lure and kill the Three Musketeers. The main concern was the ‘come alone’ part. For Lee, this condition was critical.

“Luger or Kidd tend to move alone, but me… I understand party play is not allowed, but summoned creatures and pets too?” This meant that utilizing the ‘Koma’ would be difficult.

“What about Blaugrunn? Is that also not allowed? Or what about Jellypong?”

If Jellypong appeared in the [Item] info window, could it be considered an item? Jellypong might be feasible, but expecting help from Blaugrunn and Koma seemed almost hopeless.

“So, should I start searching from the location where the World Tree’s forest was…?”

Exploring the unfamiliar lands of the eastern New Continent alone to meet Elizabeth could be interpreted as the quest’s demand.

Moreover, there was another strange point. What’s the problem with coming with someone else?

Despite there seemingly being no issue, Elizabeth clearly warned about it.

“If there’s another creature with you, ‘we unavoidably have to open fire’.”

“The handwriting is oddly curved. ‘We’ is mentioned here.”

We have no choice but to use it.

Leeha focused on the part where, after consistently using ‘I’, Elizabeth referred to ‘we’ only in that context.


“Is she talking about Mr. Brown? Or is it someone else…?” As Leeha tried to decipher the true intention behind Elizabeth’s words, not everyone was engaged in deep thought.

“Of course, I’ll do it. This isn’t the important part. Just find Brown, smack him one, and ask why he’s doing all this.” In some ways, Luger was thinking similarly to Lee.

“More importantly, we should focus on Fernand. You said you met them.”

“Really?

“Who is the Matan’s Shooter you speak of?”

Luger instinctively realized. It meant that Brown’s quest dialogue wasn’t much different from Elizabeth’s.

In that case, there was only one path left.

If Brown and Elizabeth were unable to fully control the Matan’s Shooter, hence their use of ‘we,’ then the identity of this Matan’s Shooter could only be one person.

“Yes, I even tested it on my way back.”

Fernand rummaged through his bag and took out a magnifying glass.

“Here are the three of them captured. This is possible due to the game’s inbuilt image-saving feature of an item, which cannot be prevented by screenshot blocks.”

It was natural for the eyes of the Three Musketeers to widen in shock.

“Is it really, Fernand-ssi? You mean to say the Matan’s Shooter is in there? Show us!”

“It’s a remarkable feat. To reach that place where no user has ever been-”

“But I cannot show it to you right now. I cannot immediately reveal it to you.”

Despite rushing over eagerly, Kidd and the others were only met with Fernand slipping the magnifying glass back into his bag.

Veins throbbed on Luger’s forehead. “How many times do you think you’d have to die before you’d drop that magnifying glass? Showing us now seems less risky, don’t you think?”

Luger raised the barrel of his Cobalt Blue Python at Fernand’s forehead, but the Pioneer King did not change his expression.

“It’s not that I don’t want to talk about the Matan’s Shooter. I’m not even sure if it’s appropriate to say I know. More importantly… I think there’s a matter more significant than just handling this among ourselves. I’ll report to the Papacy first before discussing this further.”

“We already know who it is. Apart from Brown and Elizabeth, there’s only one other option. I’m just curious about their appearance. Just show me that.”


“The face is captured well enough to recognize the features.”

“Yeah, so just show that-”

“I can’t. Reporting to the Papacy comes first.”

Tension surfaced again on Luger’s forehead.

But Fernand held the upper hand.

No matter how bold Luger was, causing a scene in Juma City, a unique town in the New Continent, and getting chased away was not an option.

Thus, listening to their conversation, eventually, Kidd had no choice but to accept the quest.

“Letting such a hint pass by doesn’t seem right. Regardless of the difficulty, it feels like we’re incredibly close to the Matan’s Shooter.”

Moreover, Kidd had one different thought.

‘They must have underestimated me before…’

There was a story Kidd wanted to hear from headmaster of the [Musketeer Academy].

“Let’s see if you can still say that after looking at this silencer and scope. Especially since even Fernand is barely starting to step into the eastern part of the New Continent, a whole new world.”

With such a place in mind, the anticipation of encountering many situations where Blackbeth’s quests could be cleared was not insignificant.

“Since the [Sanctification] quest is almost over anyway. I’ll have plenty of time to roam around after it’s completed.”

While the members of the Virtueur Knights Order and other troublesome figures were of concern, such issues were currently insignificant to Kidd, who had a mountain of personal matters to deal with.

Kidd nodded and asked Fernand, “So, you’ll inform us immediately after reporting to the Papacy?”

“That’s… Yes. Though personally, I’m not fond of your obsession with the Matan’s Shooter.”

He smiled awkwardly. “Okay! Then make sure to contact us later, all right?”

“Understood. I’ve conveyed everything I needed to, so I’ll be on my way now.”

Fernand left Juma City for the Ezwen Holy Empire.The knights frequented a tavern where only the Three Musketeers remained, eyeing one another.

“I think Luger and I will be leaving soon… How about you, Kidd? Will you be okay?”

“Predicting such unpredictable matters. So, you’re saying you’ll protect Browless? No, no. From Brown and Elizabeth’s perspective, they might no longer need you. Hm. It signifies you’re already out of the running for the next Matan Shooter.”

Luger mocked Kidd, letting his imagination run wild with the quest contents, even though the term “the next Matan Shooter” or its nuances hadn’t even been hinted at.

This made Leeha genuinely curious about how Luger’s nerve cells worked.

“Protecting the headmaster… Luger, you’re actually right.”

“Eh, right?”

“If it were the me from before, I would have hardly been a help concerning the headmaster’s decisions.”

“So? What about now-”

“There’s nothing more I can say to you except for my thanks.”

With that, Kidd rose from his seat, slightly lifting his coat to reveal four Crimson Geckos.

Leeha immediately understood. “Your enhancement has finished. And it seems to be incredibly satisfactory.”

Kidd had hinted at his growth even during the [Sanctification] quest. Considering the enhancement was complete, his abilities must have improved unimaginably from before.

“Like how I can easily hit 36m after Black Bass got upgraded.”

Leeha nodded.

Luger, who often visited the Blacksmith at Bottleneck for ammunition, understood where Kidd’s confidence stemmed from.

“Hmm, you think a little enhancement improved your skills?”

“Luger, even if I’ve gotten used to your provocations, they’re still annoying. If you continue, I will have to take action.”

As Luger kept taunting, Kidd’s expression hardened further.

Luger, sitting across, could not see everything about Kidd, but Leeha could. He could see Kidd’s hands moving-nimbly under the table.

“Pfft, take action? What could you possibly do here? Want to go outside? You were the last to enhance and yet so full of yourself- Ahhh!?”

Luger suddenly screamed.

Everyone in the tavern turned to look at him.

“Arrgh… You, you- doing such things in the village-”

“What have I done? I’ll leave the potion here.”

Standing up, Kidd pulled out a potion from his bag.

The sudden commotion left Leeha momentarily stunned.

What had Kidd done? Why was he thanking him? It was a few seconds later when he understood, seeing the blood streaming down from Luger’s foot!

The hands moving-nimbly under the table! And back at the blacksmith, during the enhancement attempt, the words Kidd heard!

Leeha stood up abruptly. As Kidd walked toward the door, Leeha had no choice but to shout, “Aaaah! Kidd, you, you snagged my idea again!”

“What are you on about. See you later, then.”

Kidd used a teleportation sphere, but Leeha knew. How had Luger’s foot been injured ‘without any signs’? There was only one reason.

“Damn you, gunslinger! You dared to make a silencer!”

“That’s exactly it! Damn! You overheard it and secretly made one, didn’t you!”

(To be continued…)
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When Leeha went to Bottleneck about the “Silencer,” Kidd was present. In other words, it was impossible for a marksman of Kidd’s caliber to simply hear the idea and let it go!

After Leeha successfully crafted a silencer, it meant that Kidd also created a silencer suitable for the Crimson Geckos in Bottleneck’s forge.

“Compared to Cobalt Blue Python or Black Bass, it’s a revolver that uses smaller bullets! And the moment Kidd’s knowledge of firearms is factored in—

It’s only natural there’s another bullet type that drastically reduces the amount of gunpowder, even more than the [Subsonic Bullets]! By reducing the speed even more than the nearly subsonic bullet, they achieved a completely flawless [Silent Shooting], with not even a “pop” or “pfft” sound!

However, the damage was significantly weakened, to the point where a Luger hit in the foot would only dance around in surprise, but that’s hardly the point! If you could shoot from close range without making any sound—

“You just need to pass by the target and shoot them in the solar plexus or heart and then disappear. Nobody around would be able to hear a thing.”

The damage doesn’t matter at this point. Since you can aim for instant-kill spots. Leeha trembled with excitement and fear. It was a reminder that, despite always being quiet and not very talkative, the people of Middle Earth were always up to big things.

“Incredible… Luger. You know that’s such a harsh insult it can’t even be translated right now? And you had it coming. So maybe cool it with the fooling around.”

Even as Leeha sauntered out of the tavern, Luger couldn’t catch up to him. Leeha chuckled as he watched Luger healing his wounds.

“The Eastern Lands of the New Continent… Well, it’s going to be exhausting for a while.”

With only 3 days left until “Sanctification,” with the majority of knights who were rampaging for the “Subjugation” achievement already dealt with, there was almost nothing left to interrupt Leeha’s plans except for the Virtue Knights. What did it mean that Fernand had left and even Kidd had disappeared? Leeha didn’t realize at all that not everything had been revealed to him and Luger by Fernand.

“Is that really true?”

“Yes, Your Holiness. It is presumed the child between Brown and Elizabeth, referred to as Kyle, is thought to be the Matan’s Shooter.”

“So, he… he is the son born to Brown and Elizabeth…”

The pope frowned. Memories stored in the Glasses of Truth, which Fernand had used, were coming to mind. Fernand observed the pope’s complexion closely. The pope had also led the Holy Knights of Ez during the Second Inhuman War, boosting morale across the fronts of various countries. He couldn’t have been unaware of Elizabeth and Brown’s active involvement at the time.

‘It wasn’t just familiarity. They were recorded as having a significant friendship.’

However, there was no warm smile from the pope. It was to be expected. At the time when full power was obtained in the last source of trouble, the unbelievable destructive power and range of the Musketeers were already an open secret among the high officials.

Since the identity of the “Matan’s Shooter” was known but could not be specified, it was natural to view them as a team. From the pope’s perspective, Elizabeth and Brown were already perceived as “enemies.”

Moreover, among those “enemies,” the most critical figure. It was natural that all focus would shift to Kyle once it was revealed he was presumed to be the Matan’s Shooter.

Hudid, and therefore barely visible, the Pope stared intently at the image for a long time. “So, you’ve informed the Three Musketeers, including Leeha?”


“Yes, I judged it to be okay… I delivered the note from Elizabeth. It was about finding themselves. It seemed somewhat urgent, as if there wasn’t much time left.”

“No, not that. The thing you mentioned earlier,” the Pope shook his head.

Unlike what Luger, Leeha, and Kidd had been told, there was ‘another piece of paper’ meant for Fernand. A seal of a different class than the note to be passed on to the descendants of the Three Musketeers. It was something Elizabeth had urgently handed over to Fernand as she was leaving—a letter that couldn’t be opened by just anyone. “Ah, I didn’t mention that. The letter I was to deliver to Browless,” Fernand clarified.

The letter, enchanted so only the recipient could open it, was intended for Browless. In essence, [Pierce] and [Bullseye], the Musketeers from the old times and participants in the Second Human-Demon War who suddenly joined the Demon King’s Army, were trying to communicate something to [Rapid Fire], also a Musketeer from the old era.

“Well done. Had you mentioned that, someone of Leeha’s straightforward nature would have rushed to deliver the letter to Browless.”

“That’s right.”

The reason Fernand chose not to deliver the letter was singular. The messages for Ha Leeha, Kidd, and Luger were fine as they amounted to a sort of ‘occupation-related quest’. The relationships between Leeha and Elizabeth, Luger and Brown, and Kidd and Browless could be seen as a typical ‘master and apprentice’ situation within their professions.

“And since they are already enjoying the game from a favored position. But for Browless, it’s different.”

Moreover, Elizabeth and Brown, who were suspected to be with the Marksman of the Demons, were concerning. If Elizabeth and Brown were to take Browless with them, whether to lure him into joining the Demon King’s Army or, conversely, to assassinate him?

Fernand didn’t want to bear such responsibility alone. After all, he was an ‘adventurer’ and a figure associated with the Holy Kingdom of Ezwen. “For Browless to cross over to the side of the demon king would be too dangerous. A danger that could pose a significant threat to the Holy Kingdom of Ezwen and potentially harm me as well. Above all, Fernand, who loves wandering and adventuring in unknown lands, would decidedly refuse to be involved in any more troublesome situations.”

“Did Elizabeth and Brown completely turn into the Demon King’s Army?”

“I’m not sure. They didn’t seem like such people.”

“The ‘Marksman of the Demons’, long vanished even from the legends… And to think that their son might be involved. What exactly are they planning? Taking a son, crafted to be the Marksman of the Demons, among the Demon King’s Army, what could possibly be the reason?” The Pope clenched the arms of his chair as if to break it.

Fernand had no further information. He quietly awaited the Pope’s instructions. Though they had spared my life and given me a message, it doesn’t necessarily make them completely villainous… However, undeniable evidence exists. They attacked Alexander from the source of all evil and massacred numerous guilds. Even if they claim to be good people, not a single member among the guilds wiped out by them could understand that. Naturally, Fernand couldn’t view Elizabeth or Brown favorably, which somewhat justified his current actions.

“Go to the royal palace of Fibiel. No, not just to Fibiel’s palace but to each royal palace. Tell them a meeting has been called.”

“Should I move without putting it into an official document?”

Given the matter’s sensitivity, it must remain undisclosed. This pertains especially to Elizabeth and Brown’s betrayal, with plans to reveal the letters they sent to Browless.

The Pope’s directive was clear: confirm but do not disclose, for the sake of users and fighters in the New World still battling the Demon King’s Army. Revealing that a human, once an ally, perpetrated a terrible slaughtering at the last source of evil would only breed misunderstanding, distrust, and demoralization.

“Understood. In that case, when and where will the meeting take place, and who will be attending?”

“Ten days from now. By then, the ‘Sanctification’ should be complete, ensuring no remnants of demons can approach. The location will be here, and the attendees will be—”


The Pope paused to clear his throat.

“—only the kings of each country and a minimal number of guards. The treacherous trio’s correspondence with Browless will be revealed to all present.”

“Yes.”

“Absolute secrecy is imperative, Fernand,” the Pope implored.

Fernand found the Pope’s caution somewhat novel, but understood the necessity. Given the historical records of Brown and Elizabeth sniping the Matan generals from great distances during the Second Human-Demon War, the Pope’s stance was unsurprising.

“Yes, I’ll be extremely careful.”

“Also, apologize to Browless for me.”

Fernand nodded. Browless was put in a position where he had to read a secretly sent letter in the presence of all attending kings—his closest companions.

***

“So, you’re going alone once the Sanctification ends?”

“How can I not when no one else is allowed to come?”

“But, alone! How can you, Leeha-nim? It’s dangerous, and who knows what lies there.”

“Sounds like you’re acting as my guardian. To think, Blaugrunn seems more like a nephew to me.”

Leeha laughed, appreciating Blaugrunn’s concern but feeling an unavoidable pull this time.

“I could follow invisibly—”

“No, no. Even the Ice Ostrich monsters noticed Blaugrunn’s invisibility.”

Blaugrunn huffed, about to protest, but then stayed silent. Technically, Blaugrunn had never encountered them directly. He could have argued ‘I’m capable enough!’ but there was one compelling reason not to.

“Even Bailephus and Alexander found them formidable. It’s safer for me to go alone.” Leeha pointed towards a golden dragon circling the area near the ‘Divine Staff.’

Blaugrunn, cheeks puffed, turned away, saying, “Fine, do as you wish, Leeha-nim.”

Leeha chuckled, watching Alexander circle in the air. While Leeha Jiwon never appeared, rankers like Alexander and Pei Wu often patrolled near the ‘Divine Staff,’ keeping their distance whenever Toon’s illusion emerged, not daring to approach.


“Today marks the 21st day. As the sun sets, the Sanctification will be complete. If there’s to be an assault, today’s the only chance,” everyone thought, making the vicinity of the ‘Divine Staff’ more crowded than when it was first secured.

“Alexander and Pei Wu weren’t here during the occupation, but today is different. Kidd and Luger are here too. They’re all probably waiting for the Sanctification to end before making their move.” Leeha fiddled with Black Bass’s magazine.

(To be continued…)
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Contrary to everyone’s expectations, the Demon King’s Army showed no sign of movement.

Less than two hours remained until sunset.

If they were to attack, they would need to reveal themselves now to match the timing. Yet, there was no hint of an assault.

“Do you think even if Bluebeard himself showed up, they could breach our defenses in just two hours? What do you think?”

“Ah, Nara-ssi. You’ve been working hard,” Leeha greeted, raising his hand to Nara as she approached with a question.

Nara greeted him with a smile and sat down beside Leeha.

“I always have to come first. You remember you still haven’t fulfilled our last promise, right?”

“Oh, that- Ah- Ahh! That, I’ve been, ha, a bit busy outside. Sorry.”

The promise to meet just once outside. When exactly had they made that promise? It was a word given in Hong Kong, yet Leeha still hadn’t kept it.

Since coming to Korea, he had been entirely obsessed with Midleearth.

Nara responded to Leeha’s apology with abroad smile.

She couldn’t help but think that he was someone who truly forgot about his surroundings when fixated on something.

“But what do you think their plan is? They surely don’t want the [Divine Staff] to be activated.”

“That’s true. I thought it might be a diversion, but that’s not it either. Besides tying the knights’ feet here, what else could they gain from it…? Maybe they’re just trying to waste time to prevent leveling up? At first, I even wondered if the Virtuous Knight Order was in collusion with them, but that doesn’t seem to be the case either.”

Leeha rested his chin on his hand as he responded to Nara’s question.

The plan that briefly crossed Leeha’s mind was to keep Sacred and Byulcho here while Virtue went around collecting [Subjugations]!

But that idea vanished soon as Virtue had not moved around after subduing three paleos, and the knight order Leeha had taken out using silencers and subsonic rounds were others.

“Or have they really given up? Just letting the sanctification proceed as is?”

“That’s the curious part. If that were their intention, what’s the purpose of Toon’s illusion, then?”

Leeha lightly lifted his Black Bass to measure the distance to Toon. Considering the magnification of the scope and the size of Toon within it, the current distance was roughly 260m.


Alexander also attempted to drive the Beeliphus and burn them at once, but even a slight hint of action had Toon’s illusion and the horde of monsters fleeing far away in repetition.

“Toon is too busy healing to notice, I suppose. After all, Leeha-ssi blew his arm off.”

“Heh, was that all my doing? If Nara-ssi hadn’t properly blocked the surroundings, I might have collapsed from shooting flying monsters.”

Leeha stuck out his tongue and chuckled. Nara burst into laughter with a puff.

Amidst this enjoyable atmosphere, a different thought suddenly occurred to Leeha.

“But it makes you wonder. If everything we’ve seen so far is just an illusion, maybe the real Toon is somewhere else, hiding to conduct some secret mission… No, wait a minute.”

It’s not a diversion. The [Divine Staff] is about to have its [Spirit] affixed. But all this aside, where and what is Toon doing?

It wouldn’t be like Bluebeard to just watch!

“Could there be a more important mission…? By letting the activation of the [Divine Staff] proceed, they bind our feet here, while in the meantime, they’ve gone somewhere else?”

If it’s not a diversion but merely a bait, where has the real Toon gone?

The place he is now must be where Bluebeard is most concerned about!

“Ah, it’s almost over. Once the sun sets beyond those mountains, it’s done. Come on, Leeha-ssi!”

“Ah, yes? Yes!”

Nara helped Leeha to his feet. His immersion-broke, and his thoughts flowed away.

Around them, the knight orders were already in a festive mood.

With barely ten minutes left, preparations for the festival food began everywhere.”Hyung! Hyung! Come over here! Jin Gonggong-nim brought some snacks from the capital!”

“Giggle, it’s been so long since I tasted something like this. Leeha-ssi, please join us too.” Byulcho and the Sacred Knights were almost moving like a coalition as they prepared for the gathering. Led by the hand of the nation, Leeha also made his way to the festival site, hoping against hope that his concerns about Toon were just unfounded worries.

[The activated Divine Staff has received a response from the deity.]

[Six holy horns have formed.]

[Cardinal Romero’s prestige spreads throughout both the Lope and Erika continents.]


“There, there! Look! Something’s forming at the top of the Divine Staff!”

“Whoa!? What’s that? Some kind of bell?”

Shaaa—–…!

Clusters of bright light formed and flickered at the very top of the Divine Staff, so bright that those who first pointed it out were nearly the only ones who could properly see it.

However, there was no need to see the form of the holy spirit directly.

Something more certain reacted with Leeha’s body and eyes. [You have completed the Sanctification quest.]

[Quest completion reward pickup location: The Ezwen Papacy]

[The knights who contributed to the sanctification are awaited at the Papacy.]

[Your level has increased.]

“Nice! It’s finally over! Bluebeard, Toon, Gibrid, in the end, we won!”

“Ah, Kijung-ssi! We’re not even drinking, why are you acting all drunk?”

With [Sanctification] completed, there were still concerns about where Toon might be but, at least to some extent, Kijung’s words held truth.

“It’s done. ‘The Root’ can’t be used anymore. If the knights can block the monsters one by one from now on-‘ The plan by Bluebeard to fully resurrect Gibrid won’t see the light of day. At least for today, Leeha decided to enjoy the festival with the knights gathered here from various countries.

“Ingredients! Any cooking ingredients!? I’ll whip up a dish in a flash! Today, I am the left-paghetti chef!”

“If you’re the left-paghetti chef, then I’m the right-paghetti chef!”

As Leeha enthusiastically jumped into the middle of Byulcho, Kijung said,

“Kijung-ssi, please.”

“Ugh, Kay…”

“I just found out there are levels to being unfunny. What you just did is a fail, Kay.”

Kijung’s expression, trying to suppress a smile, was met with groans from Bobae, Hyein, and Tale.


“Kijung…? I can’t even take it easy with this. You’re trying to make it funny – you probably need to get hit today.”

“Why, why! It was hilarious!”

“Quiet, man! Come here!”

As Leeha chased Kijung with Black Bass held upside down, Kijung hurriedly circled around the bonfire.

Laughter bloomed among the Sacred Knights and the nearby knights.

“Let’s also get ready.”

“Preparation’s already done. We’ve even handled the budget. Just need to execute it now.” Instead of laughter, a few of the knights chose to move in secrecy.

“They’re opening the Papacy’s treasury?”

“Yes, that’s why I told you to log in quickly!”

“Sleeping and you text me to come quickly! How’s sleep supposed to run away? You could’ve at least called to wake me up!”

Leeha and Kijung bickered as they hurried along. After completing the sanctification, Leeha could truly rest at ease following the joyful festival (?) with Byulcho, the Sacred Knights, and others.However, perhaps because the tension had been completely eased due to getting an exceptionally good night’s sleep, logging in took a bit longer than expected.

“Hey, what if everything has been wiped clean? Ah, of all days, why did I oversleep today?”

“There mustn’t be much to worry about; around thirty people visited in total, so it can’t all have been taken,” Kijung replied, shaking his head as Leeha hurriedly moved his feet and asked.

“Huh? Thirty people? How many members does the knight order have to only go in with thirty -”

“You’re such an idiot,hyung. Do you really think thousands of knights would be entering and exiting the Ezwen Papacy? The groups simply participated under their groups’ names, and the Pope himself decided the rewards. Well, the representatives dispatched or the high ranking users might have received some valuable items, though.”

“Ah, then the people who went back and forth to the Ezwen country are…”

“Right. Those who received the quest. That day, the attendees at the cathedral were the targets.”

Kijung had already heard information from the guild members of Byulcho who had gone to the cathedral to receive their rewards. Those who had the right to receive rewards from the Ezwen Papacy were the players who had initially moved to find and secure the [Divine Staff]. Hence, including Leeha, the number didn’t even reach thirty.

“Mmm, Alexander almost missed out except for the last week, though.”

Listening to Kijung, Leeha nodded. However, truth be told, he did feel a bit of sourness for being one of the last ones to receive the reward.

Kijung chuckled at Leeha’s reaction.

“Think positively, hyung! When else will you get the chance to give Alexander a ride on the bus? Who knows? Maybe that fair-play enthusiast will see this as a ‘debt’ and help out next time.”

“Well, that’s a valid point.” After all, those who greatly contributed to this event were indeed the Sacred Knights, Byulcho, and other such groups. While Alexander did participate earnestly during the last week, Leeha’s companion, Leeha Jiwon, hardly made a mark except for showing his face a few times in Leeha’s absence.

The first and second ranks didn’t earn their spots for nothing. They have mastered the art of pushing the tough work onto others while sharing the fruits of labor – a craft well understood by people in Middle Earth.

Just as Leeha was about to get angry, he suddenly thought of someone else.

“Rick, but if we’re taking this just among us, Lark, the ‘Knight of Bastards’, will be super annoyed, won’t he?”

“That guy can be a bit more annoyed. No, I hope he gets even more annoyed.”

Laughing at Leeha’s comment, Kijung couldn’t help but burst into laughter as well.

Still, Leeha, Kijung, Shin Nara, Bobae, and other players had the right to receive their just rewards at the cathedral. But Lark? Despite being in a leadership position within the Virtue Knights, he had no right to choose items from the cathedral’s treasury.

He wasn’t a quest recipient from the start. Though he contributed to securing the [Divine Staff] and thus received an item along with the cathedral’s blessing, compared to the rewards of Leeha and Kijung who were primary quest holders, it was considerably less.

“Phew, hello! We came regarding the completion of a quest!”

Finally reaching the entrance of the cathedral, the two men approached. Leeha tried to speak to the guards of the cathedral’s Pontifical Swiss Guard who didn’t blink an eye, nor did they look in his direction.

“Um? Excuse me? I’m trying to -”

“Cathedral guards, turn left, turn right—March!”

Suddenly they shouted an order. Their booming voice drowned out Leeha’s words.

Kijung, startled, even raised his sword and shield, but Leeha, quickly understanding the situation, merely wore an awkward smile.

The members of the Pontifical Swiss Guard, positioned at various points around the cathedral to protect it, simultaneously turned their bodies towards the source of the voice.

Not just the guards in front, but those at the sides all turned to look at Leeha and Kijung.

“Ah, really. This is why it’s tiring to be famous. Ah, Kijung, this must be your first time experiencing something like this, right?”

“This is such a hassle, I could die.” He nodded his head.

(To be continued…)
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The expression of someone who is pleased but cannot openly show it was clearly visible on his face.

It was only after fully enjoying the ‘look of respect’ cast by Kijung that Leeha addressed the palace guards.

“Cough, introductions are over. I was merely doing what needed to be done, after all. For the peace of the continent—”

“To carry on the will of the Nameless Paladin, we salute the Templar!”

“—It was nothing more than effort… Huh?”

Leeha’s expression changed as he began to reply. Directed at whom? Only then did Leeha properly look at the faces of the palace guards.

Their gaze was not on Leeha.

“Salute—Sword—!”

The palace guard at the door, with his sword raised in front of him, was looking directly at Kijung.

“Welcome! Guardian of the Sanctuary, Master Kay!”

Accompanying his greeting, all the cathedral guards around the Vatican, united in spirit and purpose, ceremoniously greeted Kijung. Even the players wandering around the Vatican were wondering what was happening, given the resonant shouts. The biggest beneficiary of the recent [Sanctification Quest] was not Leeha.

Nor was it the players who stopped by the Vatican’s treasure vault to claim their items.

It was Master Kay, a descendant of the Nameless Paladin, who had suddenly risen to a high-ranking position in the Vatican.

“Oh, uh, yes.”

However, the biggest beneficiary was struggling to grasp the situation.

“I initially came just to receive the quest rewards, but…”

Leeha sighed in the Vatican’s treasury vault. The treatment was vastly different than expected. While inspecting various items, none particularly appealed to him, nor could he concentrate properly because he was worried about Kijung.

Kijung: “Hey,hyung! What do I do with this? Where did you go?”

Leeha: “I don’t know. You’re a Templar, right? Throw out some words the Pope would like.”

Kijung: “No, it’s this side— Ahhh, it’s driving me crazy. I came to look at items with you!”


Kijung hadn’t received any items yet because he wanted to discuss various things with Leeha in the treasury. But Kijung was no longer beside Leeha.

Kijung, who was receiving VIP treatment, was having a one-on-one conversation in the Pope’s audience chamber.

“Still, it’s family first, right? No matter my achievements, I’ve never been treated that way.” Leeha recalled the recent turn of events.

As he followed the cathedral guards without escort — Leeha trailed behind them willingly — approaching the moment to be granted an audience with the Pope, the Pope ran out of his seat to welcome Kijung.

“The second coming of the Nameless Paladin. It’s as if our Lord Ahlo has never ceased to extend His guiding hand to us. Come hither, Master Kay.”

The scene of the Pope, tears welling in his eyes, embracing Kijung left Leeha speechless from incredulity.

‘Would he have reacted like this even if I had vanquished Bluebeard head? Well, it’s nice to be welcomed like that but…’

Leeha had his own reasons for not being able to join the conversation between the Pope and Kijung, and why Kijung had declined the Pope’s invitation to join him.

“The same story came up again! Something about a Holy Knight or so!”

Holy Knight.

The Pope had mentioned to Kijung, currently a Templar, in passing. He said someone as noble as Kijung was fully qualified to be a holy knight fighting for the Church of Lord Ahlo.

Leeha missed hearing the part about being ‘noble’ due to bursting into laughter, but he had no trouble grasping Kijung’s expression and the nuance of the Pope’s words afterward.

“Is it a second class change?”

“Seems like it… Yeah, seems like it.”

It was an offer for a second class change. Aside from Alexander, who changed from Knight to Dragon Knight, no other second class changes had been revealed yet.

“Someone might have done it already, but Alexander’s the only known one. And Kijung’s second class change… To a knight class related to the clergy!”It was only natural that Leeha couldn’t focus on the items in front of him. “Wow, me! Then that means… it could rival Alexander!” Becoming a second-tier professional was something completely different from first-tier jobs, wasn’t it? It elevated the player to a new level, much like the best content in Middle Earth. Although Alexander had skills, his fame did not match his abilities until his transition to a Dragon Knight propelled him to the top, making him the unbeatable, strongest, and permanent rank 1 holder. After achieving this rank, he never once descended from that position.

Feeling as if he had accomplished this feat himself, Leeha was pierced by a sense of pride and pleasure.

However, this was accompanied by a feeling of regret, wondering, “Why don’t I have such an opportunity?”

‘No, that can’t be right. I must have it too.’ Leeha stopped in his tracks. If there was a profession that could be my second-tier job…

Swallowing his saliva, Leeha realized now was not the time to be lost in random thoughts. Just as he began to consider the profession that could be his potential second-tier job, he spotted an item he once saw – the Eye of Argos, a unique material item capable of creating a scope with infinite range.


After leaving this place, Leeha found that not even the Holy Grail Information Guild, mobilized in its entirety, could find an item similar to it anywhere.

Picking up the Eye of Argos, Leeha thought, “But I don’t need this anymore,” and set it down.

Having already created a scope with the Eye of the Ice Ostrich, there was no need to acquire another item for a scope here.

“I don’t know how much more powerful Black Bass could become. If you can only see far but not aim, that’s no scope.”

It was no different from ‘Doctor’ Rubini’s precognitive abilities or illuminating maps, which was not what Leeha wanted.

“What I need the most right now. What I have to do moving forward.”

Leeha organized his thoughts and opened the friends panel of the Three Musketeers. Kidd was at Fibiel’s Musket Academy, and given the quest to protect Browless, Leeha figured he couldn’t leave for a while. And as for another musketeer, Luger’s location was, “Central Erika New World – Forest of the World Tree (Contaminated)… seems he’s found it already. Well, that position was likely from Fernand.”

Luger, having received a quest to seek him out from Brown, was already heading to the eastern part of the New World. Thus, Leeha’s next destination naturally aimed towards the eastern part of the New World. Leeha nodded in agreement. “Good. If Blaugrunn can’t join, and the kid can’t be summoned, then I should choose based on the type of item that can protect me- or”

“-Ah, there’s Jellypong? Haha, my bad, my bad. Hmm… then I guess I don’t need a defensive item… It would be better to obtain an item that could be used in emergency situations. Something to divert the enemy’s attention~”

Meeting Elizabeth was on the agenda. Leeha thought it unlikely that even Jellypong, treated as an item, would be restricted by her. However, one must always prepare for contingencies – encountering monsters along the way or, in the worst case, being attacked by Elizabeth or the Demon Archer. “An item that can overcome that situation!”

The conditions to receive an item from the pope’s treasury this time were up to [Legendary] class. This condition alone acknowledged the presence of Mythical class items, causing many players to search for them.

Of course, the result was chaos. Leeha cleanly gave up on the desire for Mythical items.

“I’ll find it among the Legendary class. No, as long as it fits the purpose, even Hero class is fine. Let’s find what I need the most.”

Leeha scoured the pope’s treasury to find it. After two and a half hours, and even though Kijung did not show up, Leeha, absorbed in finding the item, did not even realize this fact. He was satisfied when, after two hours and thirty minutes of searching, he discovered an item.

“What is this…?”Leeha opened the description window for the item.

ㅎ ※ ※＊

[The Glasses of the Spy Hero, Kojobu]

Description: The glasses of the spy, codenamed [Kojobu], who infiltrated the Demon King’s Army during the First Demon-Human War. With nothing special to look at, these ordinary glasses were used to penetrate the tight security of five divisions of the Demon King’s Army and steal top-tier intelligence that led the demon-human war to victory. After the hero Kojobu passed away, it is said that in honor of him, a model of his nose was attached to his glasses.

“…Kojobu’s glasses? For real?”

Although the description was grandiose, the item Leeha picked up truly was ‘Kojobu’s Glasses’.


“What in the world—”

They looked like something out of a birthday party prop, yet they were hero-grade and related to the Demon-Human War?”

“Does this even make sense?” Along with this thought, another crossed Leeha’s mind, “Well, it would make sense in Middle Earth.”

Not only was the description of the item ridiculously serious, but what was truly astonishing was its ‘effect.’

Just like how Leeha was amazed, these were indeed hero-grade items with a serious effect.

“This effect… wait, hold on.”

Leeha tried on Kojobu’s glasses. There seemed to be no noticeable change to him.

“What if this actually works?”

Then he took off the glasses. Leeha hastily summoned Jellypong.

“Jellypong!”

[Mongmong?]

“Hehehe… [Combat Mode: Melee]!”

[Bong!]

Swoosh—

The jelly-like creature that was clinging to Leeha’s body and disguised as a vest instantly separated. From a lump of slashed slime, arms sprouted forth in moments.

Jellypong’s numerous arms, not only taking on various forms of weapons but also embodying their sharpness.

Leeha, looking at Jellypong, nodded.

“Perfect! Let’s go with this!”

[Mya, mongmong?]

“If we’re not looking for a coat with good defense or shoes that increase movement speed at this late time, and it’s not going to be sold at the auction, then I should use it because ‘effect’ is more important than ‘grade’, right?”

[Miyawoooh…]

Jellypong nodded its head with a troubled look.

Being an ‘item-type creature’ that didn’t fully understand everything Leeha said, agreeing was pretty much all it could do.

[You have acquired [The Glasses of the Spy Hero, Kojobu].]

That’s how Leeha received the reward for the [Sanctification] quest.

It was a couple of hours later that Kijung, looking troubled, appeared before Leeha.

Leeha and Kijung moved to the Holy Grill in Gaza Cityh.

He wanted to inquire about various information and it was also time to do some inner-work maintenance after a while.

Besides, where else would be better to share secretive talks than in an ‘information space that is on your side’?

At least here, even if keywords related to the second job transfer were to leak, Ju wouldn’t be selling information that could harm Leeha.

“Why do you look like you’re about to die? You should be jumping for joy.”

“Haah… It’s just, it’s not as easy as it sounds. It feels like a lot of pressure.” The fact that the cooking was excellent was a bonus.

Kijung let out a sigh as he dug into the well-cooked rabbit meat steak with gusto, devouring it in a single bite.

(To be continued…)
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“Huh, seriously. There are other things to worry about. Why the fuss?”

“It’s just. This whole thing – no, ‘this task.’ If word gets out, I might just become the second-ever in the history of Middle Earth, you know?”

“Wouldn’t that be a good thing? It’s unlike you to be burdened by such matters.”

Leeha chuckled. After all, wasn’t Kijung known for his animal-like instincts in managing the guild?

He never weighed too much upon the finer details, simply pushing forward towards the direction he felt and thought was right. That was his strength.

For someone like him, such worries seemed out of place.

“So, what’s the actual burden then? Look at the precedent set by Alexander. Didn’t he mention having an Advanced Quest? Is that what’s weighing on you?”

Leeha, noticing Kijung’s sigh, pressed on for an answer.

Kijung, as if waiting for this, finally spoke.

“They want me to prevent the awakening of Gibrid. At least, to halt its resurrection in its perfect form. As hyung-ah guessed, those creatures are currently gathering monsters under the guise of the fourth wave, right?”

“That’s right.”

“I plan to disrupt them individually as much as possible to prevent them from assembling.”

“That’s the Advanced Quest, huh?”

“Indeed… Then, ‘preventing the perfect resurrection of Gibrid’ would be the success condition, with the failure condition being Gibrid’s perfect resurrection.”

Leeha nodded, impressed.

He thought, “An Advanced Job Change is truly an Advanced Job Change.”

“It’s no ordinary difficulty. Considering Gibrid’s resurrection seems almost inevitable… even though we succeeded in [Sanctification], that only slows down the monster waves, not stops them.”

[Sanctification] was more of a preparatory measure.

The main task Kijung had been given was to thwart the gathering of these monster hordes! Should he succeed, the Demon King’s Army, failing to amass sufficient wave volume, would find it difficult to deal a catastrophic blow to the users and the L480s, making it challenging to secure more souls.

“Definitely, there’s a burden to bear. To take it on alone-”


“I’m not alone. They promised the support of three hundred Paladins.”

“-to break it- huh? What?”

Leeha was taken aback.

He naturally assumed that when Kijung spoke of being burdened, it meant he had to clear the task beyond a certain level by himself.

But Kijung had originally referred to it not as ‘too difficult a quest’ but ‘too burdensome a quest.’

A single word, but the nuance was significantly different.

“Even without having changed to the Holy Knight class, to get the support of three hundred elite Paladins.”

“Three hundred? Hey, wasn’t that about the number in the largest battalion from Minis? Besides, if they select the elites from Azwon… they might be stronger than a knight battalion sent by a major nation.”

“Right. Each one nearly at the level of the Sacred Knight Order?”

“But what’s the burden then? Oh, leading them is the burden? You’ve been a Star General, after all. Not up to three hundred, but still. Oh, but if they assin three hundred Paladins to you, whose jurisdiction do they fall under? Does that mean you’re running two guilds now?”

Leeha mumbled, suddenly curious.

Kijung shook his head at the question.

“No, leadership isn’t the burden. Just think of it as becoming a slightly bigger Star General, as hyung-ah said. Plus, I met the leader of those Paladin Knights earlier. He’s already on board.”

“On board?”

“The second coming of the [Nameless Paladin], all that… you know.”

Kijung sighed once more, a long, drawn-out sigh.As they entered the Vatican, they were greeted by a dazzling formation reminiscent of the honor they had received once before.

“So, no problems with command, huh? Ah, maybe you’re just worried that taking down monsters one by one would be too burdensome?”

“No. Confronting monsters is what I do best. Hyung, I’m a tank.”

“Are you kidding me? Then what exactly is the problem?”

Unable to contain his frustration any longer, Leeha raised his voice.


Kijung was leading Byulcho. If it had anything to do with the second class change, every member of Byulcho would support him both spiritually and materially. What about the 300 paladins from Ezwen who had agreed to help?

If the highly skilled paladins, comparable to the members of the Sacred Knights, combined their strength with Byulcho’s, even a group of 600 monsters wouldn’t pose much of a problem. Unless Kijung directly encountered Bluebeard or fell into Toon’s clutches, his quest was likely to encounter no significant difficulties.

Upon hearing this, Kijung sighed once again.

“If I succeed in the quest and become a Holy Knight, I’ll be made a Cardinal. Among them, I’d be an expert in the fields of sanctification energy, exorcism, and combat.”

“Really? Wow, that’s a huge promotion!”

“Yeah. Dude, remember Cardinal Romero from a while back?”

“I remember.”

“Do you also remember what kind of authority he had?”

“Um… What kind of authority was it again?” As Leeha tilted his head in thought, Kijung spoke up again.

The real burden that worried him wasn’t about the combat difficulty or the hardships of the quest. It was about the responsibilities that the class of Holy Knight would bring upon success.

“Authority over all personnel deployed to the New Continent by the Ezwen Church, and the ability to issue ‘strong’ recommendations for cooperation from the knight orders of various countries deployed at the Pope’s request to the New Continent. You could say it’s essentially command authority.”

“Wait, you mean-”

“That’s not all. More importantly, a Cardinal -”

Kijung was cut off.

“-gains the right to be elected Pope after the current Pope.”

Becoming a Holy Knight meant that Kijung could no longer be the ‘Master Kei’ Leeha knew; his likelihood of changing roles was high.

“Hyung, if I become a Holy Knight, in the world of Middle Earth, there’ll be no user with more authority than me. Do you understand what I’m saying?”

After finishing, Kijung took a sip of his drink.

Glug, glug, glug. Leeha had nothing more to say to Kijung. That he couldn’t be of much help to his hyung, now that the quest was already accepted and wondering whether it should be deliberately failed, was a truly regrettable situation.

※ ※


“As expected, there are no spirits in the Forest of the Tainted World Tree.”

While sighing in relief, Leeha loaded his magazine. Since the World Tree was tainted, the likelihood of monsters being nearby had only increased.

After finishing all his duties in the Gaza City, Leeha had immediately headed to the New Continent. He needed to concentrate on Elizabeth’s “Find Me” quest, but Kijung’s words lingered in his mind.

“It’ll be tough. It’s bound to be tough.”

A certain level of rights can be enjoyed. Until then, the obligations and responsibilities hidden behind those rights aren’t fully apparent. However, as rights increase, the accompanying obligations and responsibilities grow two, three times larger.

Sure, reigning as the highest priest of Middle Earth would bring many privileges, but if one had to constantly consider the impact of one’s gameplay on the vast world of Middle Earth?

While fundamentally diligent and kind-hearted, it’s possible Kijung might not be able to sleep peacefully, given the everyday burdens.I am the lord of Gaza City in Middle Earth, boasting the unique title of being the first ‘individual’ lord.

However, that title only goes so far, and in the end, I’m just another lord. Without the exceptional assistance of Ramhwa Yeon, Gaza City would still be recording a deficit in its finances. Simply owning a castle has hyungught its fair share of overwhelming situations…

If Kijung becomes a Holy Knight, the burden Leeha bore as the lord of Gaza City would seem negligible in comparison.

If this were just an average game, there would be no burden at all. Simply enjoy yourself. However, the fundamental question arises – is Middle Earth ‘just an average game’?

With an influx of items and an increase in the total circulation of currency, the exchange rate with cash has slightly decreased. However, thanks to the influx of new users spurred by various event videos, the demand for gold has significantly increased. Despite the drop in exchange rates, 1 gold in Middle Earth still maintains a market price of around 100,000 won.

Even when I was diligently converting gold into cash, the price fluctuated between 100,000 and 120,000 won, so essentially, there hasn’t been much change in the market rate.

“It’s more like stabilization. The fluctuating market price has lately been steady around the 100,000 won mark. Middle Earth is indeed a game. A game with a richly detailed story and more than human-like AI. But at the same time— it’s not just a game.

What would happen if a single person were granted substantial power in Middle Earth, where massive vested interests are intricately tangled?

I knew all too well. Various organizations would try to approach and win over Kijung.

“Ah, it’s tough, so tough! I’d rather solve a math problem with a definite answer—no, wait. I was bad at math, too.”

Leeha, who had struggled the most with calculating ballistics based on formulas while receiving sniper training, realized why Sniper Squad Leader Kim probably didn’t like (?) him much. After all, no one likes a student who doesn’t need teaching.

“First, let’s go see Mr. and Mrs. Brown’s house, as Fernand pointed out.”

[Bongmong!]

Leeha opened the map and started walking. There was too much on Leeha’s own plate to worry about Kijung.

“But that’s exactly… the thrill of Middle Earth.”

Despite worries that could crush one’s chest and concerns that could turn one’s hair white, Middle Earth was too fascinating to quit.

“It literally mixes life with the game. A world that strictly relies on the player’s choices amongst extreme difficulties, the very source of its addictive nature.”

When Leeha first set out to find Elizabeth, the northwestern region of the New Continent near the paleo tribe was in total chaos.

“I just don’t get it.”

“What don’t you get?”

Surrounded by shouts of encouragement and screams, the sound of swords cutting through the air and shields deflecting something, filled the area.

Even in the midst of a blood-drenched battlefield, Lark was unfazed. “Why can’t they do something this simple when I’ve already shown them how?”

There was no need for tension. The subjugation of the paleo Tribe, symbolized by the Golden Carp, was essentially concluded.

“So, you’re saying there’s a budget left over? Users are one thing, but the NPCs have to be recruited again after they die. Jumping in without thorough preparation—”

“No, no, it’s not about preparation or anything. It doesn’t make sense unless the level of Minis’ Knights has dropped significantly,” Lark was meant to say this but was preemptively interrupted, as Pung toyed with his abacus.

It would have been understandable if it were an average guild composed of just users. Mistakes could happen because, after all, they’re human players.

But for a knight order, comprised at least half of NPCs, to slack off on their mission execution?

And no one even attempted to flee until they faced total annihilation?

“Muhohoh, you don’t think you’ll get away with this, do you?”

“Whoa! You got me there. Acting all tough when you can’t even leave the water—”

Pfwuuuush!

A water cannon shot out swiftly from the mouth of the paleo Tribe’s mystical creature, Shoer the Golden Carp.

The pressure of the water jet spewing from the mouth of the giant trout is even more powerful than that of the sea god!

“[Blue Hurricane]!”

(To be continued…)
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The powerful stream of water flying towards them took a sharp turn towards the sky as Lark wielded his sword a few times, turning into a spray that merely drizzled down from the air, much like rain.

“There, carp lord, let’s not do this. Nobody’s saying they’re going to slice you up for sashimi. It’ll all be over soon, so it’s better for us all if you just stay put. If you keep resisting, I’ll have to dive in there. Do you want a fight?”

Lark took a combative stance with his sword, yet Shoer could not muster any retaliation.

The Golden Carp paleos were known for their formidable strength and exclusive habitat, making it rare for anyone to achieve even a “Intimacy” achievement with them.

Most challenging were the elusive movements of the paleos in their half-human, half-fish form, which would have been impossible to keep up with had Leeha not possessed an “Mermaid Transformation” skill.

Yet, Lark had subdued them.

With a resolve that hinted at evaporating the entire lake and a display of his genuine capabilities, the paleos had no choice but to emerge from the water.

Even though they were stronger than many players, their subjugation by the Virtur Knights was swift due to the paleos’ lack of strategy, skill, and approach towards their enemies.

“Kahahaha!”

“Protector, o our Protector!”

“Silence, Pung”

“Hmm?”

“Look, the carps are crying. Wow, I’ve never seen fish cry before.”

Tears fell from the eyes of the golden carps transformed from paleos, and Lark, seemingly fascinated, applauded.

The irony was not lost on anyone that Lark himself had caused these tears to flow… Pung found the commander’s demeanor terrifyingly cold.

“You damned humans! I curse you all!”

Even Shoer, stammering at first, raised his voice without making a sound fearing his ‘children’ might get hurt further. He could no longer resist, especially when Lark started evaporating the lake water with his “Hurricane Blue” skill.

“Yes, yes. Do curse us all you want. Now, where’s the nearest paleo tribe? Sacred’s about to catch Pung of this. We need to move quickly.”

“Let’s see… if we head a bit northeast, you’ll find a turquoise mountain. There’s another paleo tribe there. Whoever brought this map really deserves extra pay.”


Pung informed Lark while perusing the map.

With a premium map marking all nearby paleo tribes, it was no wonder their advance was unhindered.

Of course, Pung had no idea that this map had traveled from the hands of the Shinobigumi through Minis Royal Palace, finally reaching Virtur Knights through intricate connections.

“Alright, there! You two, head back to the royal palace and share the method of subduing the carps with other knight orders! Don’t forget to mention that at least fifty Pung mages or elementalists of expeditionary level would be needed to disperse lake water. The rest, prepare to march—”

“If Leeha were here— Mwahaha, if Leeha were here, you all would have been sentenced!”

“—What??

Shoer’s eyes sparkled with fury. With the water level significantly lowered by Lark’s skill, only the heads of the carps peeking from the lake shot him looks filled with resentment.

“Puhahat! Clearly, someone of New Continent fame is treated differently, huh? Even if Leeha were strong, it’s not like he’d be—”

“Wait, just a moment. Be quiet, Pung.”

Pung laughed off Shoer’s shout, but Lark did not.

“Err… Why Leeha?”

“What’s with Leeha? Even if he’s been on numerous expeditions, isn’t the top fame in the New Continent held by Alexander?”

“Well, that’s old news now.”

“It doesn’t have to be Alexander. There’s Shin Nara, and if we’re talking about wanderers, there’s Fernand. But to specifically mention ‘If Leeha were here’…”

What Lark felt was an unsettling feeling.

“A mystical creature that just cursed humanity now seeks Leeha over anyone else…?”

Lark’s contemplation made his head turn slowly.

Pung, having locked eyes with Lark, clapped his hands as if realizing something.

“Could it be, he’s involved with why the knight orders failed?”

“If Leeha can do it, surely he can. He must still have plenty of cards up his sleeve that we don’t know about. Hmm, but personally, I’m really curious how he did it? Unless he gets rid of that noisy gunfire – Ah, a silence spell! Was it a dragon trick from the past?”


Lark’s thoughts rapidly advanced.

It wasn’t the complete answer, but it was close enough to be considered essentially correct! Shoer had barely uttered a word, yet Lark progressed his thoughts to that extent, showcasing the insight that likely elevated him to the position of the commander of a hundred in the Virtur Knight Order.

“Huh?”

“Go after those who left for the palace earlier… and check again. Investigate what happened during the subjugation with those who have reconnected. We might not obtain the dragon’s magic, but prepare to counter the silence skill by bringing a [Sound Detect] scroll. The places that have been annihilated the most were by the red goats and black cranes, right? Especially prepare thoroughly for those who are targeting that area. If we manage to catch even one-”

“What if it’s revealed to be Leeha? Then what?”

“Well, we’ll have to hold him accountable for turning his back on humanity. Right?”

Lark spoke brusquely but was never one to leave any “loopholes” unattended.

“Ha, interesting. I quite like it. Extraordinary indeed, to think he has been killing off our knights by the hundreds…”

His plans to completely eliminate Leeha’s movements in the New World were steadily accumulating.

***

“Keeeeee—–!”

“Ah, it’s so loud! Quiet! I wish it were a griffon instead!”

Despite the shivers that ran through his body, Leeha’s actions weren’t slow.

A monster with the body of a lion, the wings of an eagle, and yet a face resembling a human woman! “It’s a relief it can’t speak, or should I say- Whoaa! Jellypong.”

Whoosh-!

A whooshing sound followed by a moment of turmoil was all it took for Leeha to lose his aim.

[Myong myong!]

Being ambushed by a Griphonia from behind, Jellypong had to maneuver in three dimensions hurriedly.

The Griphonias lived along cliffs.

This meant that thanks to the Jellypong’s arms, which allowed quick cliffside mobility, Leeha could barely manage to combat them.


“I knew they wouldn’t be easy-”

From the ground, the cliff tops were obscured by clouds, invisible so much that reaching such heights was only possible just before a swarm of Griphonias attacked!

“Keeeee, keeeeeeyet!”

“Screaaaaaaaa-!”

Without the help of the Jellypong, even Leeha would have had to flee regardless.

In other words, as long as Jellypong was there, the enemies were merely an annoying nuisance to Leeha.

Quick, quick!

The cries of the Griphonias were drowned out, and with every pull of the trigger by Leeha, the Griphonias definitively plummeted.

Watching their bodies turn jet-black towards the bottomless earth below, Leeha swallowed hard.

“Keeeeee-”

“Jellypong, whew, there, towards that protruding rock- Whoaaaa!”

Swooooosh—!

Jellypong’s arms stretched out long, chasing directly behind, securely grabbing Leeha’s body. Despite the assurance and agility, the intense chase and the fear of falling were not something that could be easily shaken off.

“Fernand, how on earth did he-”

Whoosh!

“-manage to climb up here by himself?!”

Whoosh!

“Mon! Meooow!”

In an instant, three shots. With that, another escape from the Griphonias was made as Jellypong maneuvered in three dimensions.Climbing such a steep cliff with just a set of rock climbing gear and a whip! Leeha felt a renewed sense of awe at the dignity of the adventurer Fernand.

[Mongmong! Mong!]

“Enough with the encouragement, just tell me we’re almost there, please-”

[Mongmong! Mongmong!]

Responding to Leeha’s words, Jellypong shouted again, giving Leeha’s body another boost.

The figures of Griffonias circling the area disappeared from Leeha’s view in an instant.

“It’s too fast! Just a bit slowe-”

Shaaaaa…

Suddenly, the towering cliff that blocked Leeha’s path disappeared completely.

What unfolded before his eyes was the sunset sky and a toy-like object far in the distance.

*Home…! There, there it is!” Beneath the pastel-colored sky, Leeha clearly saw the wooden house. Moreover, the excitement only grew when he knew whose home it was.

“Jellypong! …But if we’re floating up in the sky like this, how are we going to get down when it’s time-”

Just as a high-flying ride suddenly drops, Leeha’s body almost fell, topping at its highest point.

[Bongmong!]

“Woaaah! I hate rides like this the most!”

Floundering in free fall, Leeha’s descent was finally brought to a halt.

It was Jellypong, grounding himself with his arms acting as support pillars.

Leeha nodded, gazing at Jellypong’s arms digging back into the ground. It was somewhat of a shock, but he felt fortunate nonetheless.

“Thanks, Jellypong. The suspension’s not bad.”

Amidst this, Leeha fully understood Jellypong’s aim to minimize the shock.

“Phew, that takes care of the Griffonias – Is that what’s left now?”

Leeha measured the distance to the wooden house in his sight.

He had deliberately chosen ammunition with reduced count and a silencer for this moment.

The possibility that they might be there!

“Of course, they’re probably not there. The chances are almost 99%, but just in case…”

Days had passed since Fernand had contacted him, and even racing in a straight line from the World Tree’s forest had taken over 10 hours.

He had started off in the morning and only arrived at sunset; they couldn’t possibly still be there.

Despite thinking this, he couldn’t shake off the ‘what if’ feeling. After all, it was Elizabeth who had told him to come find her.

“If I passed the note directly to Fernand, then it was expected that Fernand would divulge this location.”

So then? Even if Elizabeth herself wasn’t there, could there be some other clue?

With cautious steps, Leeha approached the wooden house.

“[Mana Clairvoyance].”

Ziiing-!

Using the skill for reconnaissance, as expected, there was no response from people.

Only after confirming that there was no one inside the house did Leeha hastily enter.

“Huh-… not what I expected-”

It was true, he was slightly surprised.

He thought he would find no signs of someone being there, but contrary to expectations, various items were left inside the wooden house.

“What? Why did they move so hurriedly? It’s like they fled in the night…”

People who should live without leaving a trace more than anyone. Let alone after Fernand had visited, it was unthinkable for such beings not to know that other users might arrive here at any time.

“It’s impossible that Brown or Elizabeth didn’t know. Then why this movement? Unlike those who secretly disappeared during the Second Human-Demon War…

It was too negligent. There can only be one reason.

They were pressed for time.

(To be continued…)
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For reasons unknown, they had been pursued to such an extent that they hadn’t even had the leisure to erase their tracks.

To Leeha, this seemed rather fortunate.

Wasn’t this the perfect opportunity to gather new information, given that their traces were abundantly left behind?

The moment Leeha set foot forward, creak… the wooden door of the house opened.

As the hinges creaked, Leeha immediately cocked his Black Bass.

With a click, the muzzle of the Black Bass instantly aimed at the door.

However, Leeha couldn’t pull the trigger. The shadow cast by the door was also pointing a lengthy barrel at Leeha.

“Luger??”

Leeha’s eyes widened in shock upon recognizing it. Ironically, the person more startled was Luger.

“How are you here? No, how on earth did you-”

It seemed Luger, who had started his journey much earlier than Leeha, had just arrived.

“What? A day? It seemed like you left almost two days before me. Only got here now?”

“It’s me who should be saying that. Damn it, did that bastard Fernand give you a crystal ball or something?”

“What are you on about? I thought I was going to die getting up here. Fernand isn’t the kind to hand out something like a crystal ball lightly, you know.”

“What? You came up here?”

Luger frowned, his reaction a mix of surprise and bewilderment. From this, Leeha could tell.

The route chosen by Leeha and the one selected by Fernand were the same.

That is, Leeha had followed the path Fernand had shared without deviation! But what had there been along the way? Impossibly high cliffs and the nuisance of Gryphonia swarms had blocked the “Fernand route”. Right. That’s why he was late. Took a detour, did you?

“You mean to tell me you climbed those cliffs? Impossible. How could you?”

“Phahaha! That’s a secret, a secret. Oh dear, poor Luger-ssi. Doesn’t the name [Pierce] mean you should blast through cliffs like those, no?”


Seeing Luger’s face twist even more, Leeha burst into laughter. Solo acts of bravado were merely amusing in Leeha’s view.

Luger wasn’t the one to question what penetration had to do with rock climbing. In his mind, the fact that “he was later than Leeha” was the only thing that remained.

“Damn, I was supposed to shoot upon sight.”

“Giggle, no way. If you had tried to shoot me, I would have pulled the trigger too, don’t you think? Could you have dodged it?”

“Do you think you could beat me in reaction speed?”

“Hmm, feel free to test it if you wish.”

Leeha slung his Black Bass over his shoulder, wearing a smile.

To anyone watching, this might have seemed like a tense confrontation, but for the Musketeers, it was just business as usual.

Luger searched the interior of the house with a loud ‘hmpf,’ showing his annoyance.

Leeha did not indulge in any further pranks.

Instead, the fact that he had run into Luger was reassuring.

“If you already checked the place, I doubt there’s any information left, might as well be rat droppings.” Along with a premonition that there still might be useful information left in the house, and the confidence that if an enemy did intrude, they could handle it together, Leeha felt reassured.

“Jellypong, let me know if you find anything that looks like a book.”

[Swoosh]

After the quiet reply from Jellypong, Leeha too began to search around.

Most of what they found were articles of clothing. For a moment, Leeha wondered if these were part of “equipment items” but, as it turned out, they were just “clothes”. They could be worn or put in a bag, but there seemed to be no need to bother picking up ordinary to superior grade clothes without any special options.

Wearing clothes that Elizabeth or Brown wore wouldn’t necessarily teach him anything.

“A few utensils… that side seems like just a bin. Given the flies buzzing around, there might be food waste. Well, people who moved in a rush wouldn’t have bothered cleaning up their trash.”

Even after checking the master bedroom, kitchen, and living room, nothing particularly caught Leeha’s interest. It seemed that Luger also failed to find anything of note, as only the steady sound of his boots echoed continually in Leeha’s ears.

“There’s no hint-”


“Hm!?”

“-Oh, there isn’t? What did you find, Luger!”

It was then that Luger’s voice reached Leeha, who had been moving quietly. Dropping the clothes he was holding, Leeha immediately dashed towards Luger. However, if Luger had a weakness, it was in moments like this. He clumsily scrambled, making a racket as he quickly headed outside the house.

“Pff, do you think I’d actually tell you!”

“What is it! Show me!”

“Haha, this time I’ll take the lead!”

What Luger pulled out from his bag was a short-range teleport scroll. Seeing him take out a scroll closer to a ‘Blink,’

Leeha was flustered.

“Wh-What?! You’re going to play dirty?”

Even as he spoke, Leeha was thinking of using a scroll himself. But it was already too late! Knowing that Leeha couldn’t kill him, Luger turned his back and tossed the scroll.

“No! Wait!”

Whoosh—!

The ripping sound of the paper resonated triumphantly. He had thrown it with all his might, yet nothing had changed. Huh?

“What? Th-this damn- Defective goods from the scroll shop-”

“Haha! Defective? Is that even possible- Wait, how many do you have!? Don’t go! I warned you!”

Leeha, seeing Luger’s panic, regretted laughing even for a moment. In that time, Luger had pulled out another scroll, ready to use it again. Whoosh—!

Again, a robust tearing sound echoed, but still, there was no change in Luger.

“Why… Why doesn’t the teleport scroll work?”

“Why, you ask, you idiot!” Leeha hurriedly ran and grabbed Luger’s arm.

Fernand hadn’t explained everything. However, he had mentioned the situation during his escape.


The reason they built a house in a place like this must be because of that! Even without space-locking magic, you can’t teleport in this area! It’s because it’s a highland, making it easier to spot enemies approaching.

Unless it was someone of Fernand’s caliber, no one would have approached the cliffs, and if Luger’s chosen route was the only way here, that made even more sense.

In addition to making fast escapes through teleportation impossible, any lifeforms that illegally entered this area would have ended up as ‘food’ for Brown and Elizabeth.

“Why? Why-”

“Quiet down, and let me see!”

“Wow.”

Leeha, still in the process of piecing his thoughts together, snatched a piece of paper from Luger’s hand. Luger also hurriedly focused on the paper along with Leeha. The paper had a drawing on it.

The drawing was so rushed and crudely made it was hard to make out. Yet, the two of them immediately knew what it was.

“A map!”

“Indeed, a map.”

Despite looking like it was drawn by an elementary student with their feet, the ‘honest house drawing’ had a pair of scissors marked on it.

It was clear to the two of them what the current location and this house meant. The issue was the arrows stretching out from the scissors, and the numbers written at the tips of these arrows.

“Hmm, they look like coordinates. What do you think, Luger?”

“That’s ridiculous. Do you really think the coordinates of Middle Earth would be marked as mere 250.270? Had your friend, the Sage, heard this, he would have laughed for hours.”

“I know, I know! It was just a toss in the air, no need to bite my head off.”

The numbers attached to each arrow were oddly different. There were six-digit numbers, easily readable numbers in the thousands, such as 2,000 or 3,000, and a mix of letters and numbers like 3001, 4001 on some arrows.

Luger burst into laughter after staring at the map for a while.

“Kekeke… Kahaha! Brown, you rascal, trying to belittle me.”

“What? What is it?”

“Heh, you don’t need to know. I’ll be on my way first. Feast your eyes till they fall out. It’s a gift for the dolt.”

“Tell me before you go!”

“Idiot, it’s the map left by Brown and Elizabeth. If you don’t know what it means, you might as well stay here forever.”

With those words, Luger left the house.

Leeha tilted his head for a moment but didn’t feel like blindly following Luger. Besides a matter of pride, both their quests had a condition of ‘come alone.’ He thought it might not be any different for the Three Musketeers.

“Damn. Would it kill him to share? Luger’s all right, but he’s too non-cooperative. Shouldn’t we help each other in times of need? 2,000 or 3,000 numbers—wait a minute.”

Something clicked in Leeha’s mind. On closer inspection, the styles of the numbers were different. The “3” in the number written as 3,000 and in 3001 were in different styles.

“Luger was sure. This map isn’t just for viewing; it was left behind by Brown and Elizabeth for us. And he could say so because?”

He could decipher the information on the map, and it was practically helpful to him. Considering the different handwriting styles and the intent of Brown and Elizabeth—

“Oh my god! That’s it! Yes, I’ve seen this before!”

Leeha immediately understood the meaning, “250.270 indicates levels! And 2,000 or 3,000 are distances! And—” Had Leeha been an ordinary person, he wouldn’t have understood. What do 3001 and 4001 signify? Leeha recalled seeing such numbers once.

During a virtual union training, the information of the mechanized infantry division assined as Leeha’s opponent was marked with numbers!

“It’s the thickness! Used to indicate the thickness of armor on tanks or armored vehicles, probably in millimeters.”

There could be numerous units that ‘mm’ might represent if written by someone else. But, as Luger put it, isn’t this the map ‘Brown’ has left behind?

When considering information that the old generation’s [Piercing] might leave for the new generation’s [Piercing], this inference makes sense.

“In other words, the distance-related information was left by Elizabeth for me, and the thickness-related information was left by Brown for Luger. There was only one reason they left this information.

‘Find us, but come having grown stronger along the way… Wait, hold on. But does Luger even have that?”

Leeha vividly remembered the time Elizabeth had disregarded him. Elizabeth’s intent was “Clear more of Black Bass’s quests before coming!”

She could understand the concept of levels. Hence, leaving behind such information seemed most plausible. But what about Luger?

Luger’s cobalt blue python was a different weapon from Leeha’s.

“That was something Bottleneck-ssi checked from the beginning. He said it was different from the Crimson Geckos or the Cobalt Blue Python… When was that? Could it have changed since then?”

The situation might have changed. After all, wasn’t Luger the first to discover a way to enhance the weapon?

“But that’s a different story. Enhancing it once doesn’t make a heroic weapon legendary, right?” But he couldn’t be sure.

Above all, neither Luger nor Kidd had ever explicitly stated that the weapons were “end at the heroic class.” In a place where information was closely guarded, taking their word at face value and believing it unchangeable was foolish.

“Really, not a single trustworthy person around,” Leeha thought. It was implausible that Luger, understanding Brown’s intent, would fail to grasp Elizabeth’s intent.

Yet, he asked no questions.

(To be continued.)
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Luger had no questions like, “Are there quests unique to each area?” or, “Does matching certain criteria in each area trigger changes?”

The reason was simple.

“It’s obvious… Luger himself is already breaking through similar quests… That must be it. Damn, I can’t afford to fall behind. Jellypong!”

[Myong?]

“It was a bit too much not to mark on the map the places we needed to go to – but since it’s to the east, we just have to charge forward, right?”

[Myong!]

Leeha ran toward a location marked with an arrow pointing east from their current position, labeled 260-280 / 3,800. This was an area inhabited by monsters ranging from levels 260 to 280, with a sniping distance of 3,800 meters available.

“Even Madame Ju had no idea about the eastern part of the New Continent. It was regrettable not to obtain monster data, but who knew we’d benefit from such a place. Heh:”

Leeha, who had only been given headaches by Gaza City without gaining much in return, gained new information thanks to the trickery (?) of Elizabeth and Brown.

“We have to stop by at least once to verify if this map is true. Let’s clear Black Bass Quest No. 5 first before departing.”

Fortunately, despite the map’s lack of detailed records, it included the Forest of the World Tree, which was near their current location. Leeha anticipated they could reach it by walking through the night without any incidents, underestimating the New Continent’s ‘night’ severely.

Leaving the house where Brown and Elizabeth had stayed, three hours later, Leeha’s steps faltered.

KUOAAAAAAA———-

With a loud explosion, Leeha felt the aftermath clearly on his skin. Yet, despite the risk and adventure, nothing was there.

“Ugh… Why can’t I see any flames?” Leeha, who carried gunpowder and emergency bombs, was in a location where not even the slightest light could be produced.

The eastern part of the New Continent was a completely different environment from the west.

※ ※

“I can feel the heat, but…”

Walking in the forest at night was dangerous, a fact well-known to Leeha.

However, being neither a novice nor lacking experience in battles in various environments like Middle Earth’s bonfires and ‘Lightless of Forest’, Leeha had somewhat underestimated the situation.


“Damn, so this is the New Continent.”

Leeha thought individual firearms might be usable, but even flint couldn’t produce a spark of light here.

The forest completely blocked external light sources like the moonlight.

Internal combustion failed to ignite as well, essentially rendering visibility nil.

In this situation, Leeha, as a sniper, was virtually useless.

“Jellypong?”

[Myong?]

“Do you see anything?”

[Myong? Myong!]

“Right?”

Though communication was limited to vocal sounds, the intent was perceived.

“…This would’ve been a good time for Blaugrunn.”

Apparently, Jellypong saw nothing as well.

It was akin to being blindfolded, making it difficult to take even a step forward.

“Is this some kind of status ailment or something blocking my vision?”

Leeha sat down, pondering without moving rashly.

“No, if it were a status ailment, it would show up in the system window. It can’t be a connection issue or something like that…”

Yet, the absence of light led Leeha to doubt the Middle Earth connection device. However, that was unlikely.

That would’ve resulted in system notifications or forced logouts.

Indeed, such situations weren’t unprecedented. Leeha remembered the time with Anderson and Hatchling Blaugrunn, entering a purifier near the Dragon Palace? The three entities had once ventured into the deep sea where not a speck of light entered. And even in those depths, devoid of light, their tactile and other senses remained relatively alive.


“Maybe summoning Koma will help?”

Leeha pondered for a moment. It seemed worth trying. After all, isn’t it a flame spirit?

“Since it’s self-igniting… Maybe its light won’t be swallowed up.”

In such a state, moving was practically impossible.Despite his attempt to activate the Correction Sphere, Leeha found that teleportation was also ineffective.

Leeha: Luger! Where are you?”

Luger: “Why should I tell you?”

Leeha: “You gotta be kidding me. Here you are, completely lost in a forest where you can’t see a thing, and you still act all high and mighty

Luger: Look! How did you…?”

He fell into a puzzled silence, then shouted,

Luger: “Can you see me? Is that it?”

Leeha: Pfft.

At Luger’s reaction, Leeha laughed. Once again, he realized that in terms of ‘testing the waters’, few were as susceptible as Luger.

Leeha: “Teleportation doesn’t work, huh?”

Luger: “Damn you. Don’t ask if you know.”

Leeha: “Why so serious? I can’t even begin to fathom how vast this forest is… How long have you been in here?”

Luger: “You don’t need to know.”

Luger curtly cut off the conversation. After all, their location was plain to see with the Musketeers’ teleportation ability.

Leeha opened the friend window to check.

“[Forest of Darkness].”

He smirked.


“It’s not like it’s a mystery to either of us that we’re in the Forest of Darkness. What’s the point of hiding? But seriously… Compared to other places that go on about being devoid of light and all, this is quite straightforward.”

As simple as it is, the problem is severe. Just one word, ‘Darkness’, with no further explanation.

To describe this space, which feels almost like a universe, with just one word ‘Darkness’ is indeed a cruel move by the administrators.

“Talk about a lack of description. There’s nowhere else like this, and to brush it off with just one word…”

[Myong, myong! Myong myong myong!]

“Huh? What’s wrong, Jellypong?”

[Myong! Myong myong!]

Leeha’s eyes still saw nothing.

Hoping against hope, he opened his eyes which he had kept shut to try and adapt to the darkness, but with the light level at zero, it was of no use.

However, he could feel sounds and textures, the sensation of Jellypong moving in his chest, and the wooshing sound of stretching.

Jellypong’s urgent voice and sudden reaction.

Leeha lifted the Black Beast. “Jellypong! What is it! What’s there?”

“Myong, myong, myong myong!”

The sound of Jellypong’s limbs stretching out with a woosh was heard from all directions.

Not towards a single point, but it felt like an assault from everywhere. This meant Jellypong also couldn’t clearly perceive the threat!

Leeha quickly shouted,

“Stop! I’ll fire if you come any closer!”

Whether they understood the language was uncertain, but he didn’t bother to elaborate.

Instead, Leeha immediately used [Mana Clairvoyance].

[Mana Clairvoyance] wasn’t hindered by light issues, he thought he would surely see the existence, but still, Leeha saw nothing.

“Myong, myong myong!”

“I said stop. Stop!”

He must leave. He must get out of this forest.

“Damn it!”

But how?

He had tried throwing bombs, and even creating light with gunpowder and fireflies. All such efforts were futile in this space.

It felt like less than ten minutes since he entered the forest, but to find a way out,

he had no idea which direction to go.At that time, it wasn’t this hard to see.

In the end, there was only one course of action immediately available to Leeha.

Other than the sound of Jellypong, there was no sense of anything approaching, but that didn’t mean there weren’t ways to pose a threat, even in the current situation.

Leeha raised the muzzle of Black Bass skywards.

And then, he pulled the trigger.

As the echo of the gunshot faded, Leeha trained his voice forward in a low tone.

“I told you not to come closer. Approach any further, and I will shoot in your direction.”

A bluff, not a threat. How could he shoot at an unseen enemy?

Yet, a threat delivered with a roar always yields a result.

“Kishishish, how can you shoot when you can’t even see me? You’re not even looking my way.”

Leeha reflexively swung his gun toward the voice that suddenly came from his right rear.

Despite spinning around swiftly, the next voice came from his left rear.

“Woah, so fast! Too fast, kishi. But with that movement, you can’t possibly attack me.”

It was a laugh somewhat similar to Biyemi’s, but the whistling through the wide gap in the teeth felt profoundly more abundant.

Leeha focused on the chilling voice and laughter.

The one who was on his right had moved to his left while speaking.

The voice seemed almost right beside his ear, yet no sound betrayed the creature’s movement.

‘My footsteps are this loud, how can there be no sound from him? Could you be from the Miyaw race? Or a paleo capable of completely silencing their footsteps?”

Kishishish… An ominous laughter began to echo from all around Leeha.

Unable to ascertain if it was coming from a single entity or multiple, Leeha was forced out of choosing to fight.

A sniper unable to use teleportation, fighting blind in this place would render him utterly useless.

A fight would surely be a path to sure defeat, a lethal deadlock.

As Leeha was mulling over how to initiate a dialogue, the other party spoke first.

“I definitely smell something~… What is it?”

“What do you mean by ‘what’?”

“The stench, the stench. It’s similar to what the Undine folks emit, but there’s no Undine here. Only this strange jelly attached to your chest. There’s also a peculiar scent of gunpowder. Aren’t you a spirit master? How can you be such a fool despite having an affinity with spirits?”

The kishishishish laughter echoed again.

Leeha finally had a clue.

Although unable to discern the species, he had enough hints to figure out it was some form of creature.

“It’s a spirit!”

Identifying his affinity with spirits instantly. And connecting his frequent summoning of a Koma and his contractual relationship with a fire spirit to the half-lifeform Jellypong species born from a water spirit!

“A spirit… Are you?”

“You didn’t come here to see us!?”

“No, that’s- well, yes. That’s why I’m checking. May I know your name…?”

His voice suddenly rose, and Leeha adopted a lower stance.

Judging from the laughter, he could easily infer the spirit was whimsical. “My name is Shade Spirit Adom. But you’ve got the wrong address. We have no intention of making a deal with you. Kishiseth.”

The Shade Spirit laughed once more.

Though it was the first time Leeha heard the name of such a spirit, he did not panic.

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi, what is a Shade spirit?

He had a ‘cheat key’ that allowed communication at any time, even if they couldn’t act together.

Blaugrunn immediately responded. At last, Leeha understood. Well, it was obvious from the start. What kind of spirit would one expect in the [Dark Forest]?

Blaugrunn: Shade? You mean a mid-level spirit Adom? Did you encounter it just now? Where? It’s been known that Adom do not emerge into this realm lately.

Leeha: Recently? How long is lately?

Blaugrunn: About… 100 years?

Leeha: A hundred, that’s considered ‘recently’? Okay, got it. I’ve encountered it now, so I’ll talk to you later. Blaugrunn: Wait! Please, call me too! Leeha-ssi! Leeha-ssi!

(To be continued…)
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Leaving Blaugrunn’s earnest voice behind, Leeha terminated their complicated conversation.

“A dusk spirit that hasn’t shown itself in nearly a hundred years…”

Leeha’s thoughts quickly began to race.

“I can’t tell you how much trouble I’ve been through looking for you all. Oh, you are all here, right?”

Teehee, teeheesat!

Leeha was certain now.

The laughter of the dusk mystical creatures echoed from all around. Essentially, this place was a “Dragon Palace” for the mystical creatures of dusk.

“Mermaids are fully materialized water spirits, so the concept is a bit different… but I’m convinced this place has been a sanctuary for the dark spirits who’ve been hidden in the Lope Continent for the past century.

“Keeseet, what to do!? You’ve come all this way, it’d be a shame if we’re not willing to make a contract.”

“If it’s not too rude, may I ask why?”

Ideally, seeing a Shade’s form would have made conversation easier, but speaking was the only option Leeha had at the moment. Above all, since they could see him, he remembered to wear his brightest smile.

“A reason? We just don’t want to! Especially not with humans, and certainly not with someone who’s not even an Alensterna.”

Laughter erupted once again from various places.

Leeha didn’t miss a single word they said.

“You seem to know a lot about humans, given how long you’ve been here?”

“Teehee! Of course! We even know about the humans who sometimes come here to play! There’s another human reaching out and dancing somewhere else right now. Teeheehee…”

Leeha quickly guessed they were talking about Luger. He felt a desire to screenshot that moment of Luger, though he wasn’t in any different situation himself.

More importantly…

‘If excluding Fernand, no other user has reached this place, then who are these ‘sometimes visiting’ humans?’


Leeha quickly realized who they might be.

“Are the visitors by any chance a man and a woman?”

“Oh! Oh! Oh! I thought the weapon on your back looked like Brown and Elizabeth’s! You’re not a Spirit Master but a Marksman?”

“Yes, right. I’m an acquaintance of theirs. They had asked for a favor. They said they had passed by here not long ago… I’m new to this area, so I’m not familiar with the way…”

“Teehee, you don’t know the way!”

“Fool, fool! The only ones who know the way in the dark forest of shadows are us!”

Just a few minutes ago, he had mentioned coming to see the dusk mystical creatures and now flipped his words skillfully. However, the dark spirits found Leeha’s sly smile and acting only amusing. Such unexpected joviality.

“Brown and Elizabeth passed here already more than three days ago!”

“No, it’s been two days!”

“Three days, isn’t it?”

If it wasn’t for the visibility issue, Leeha might have believed they were not “dusk” but “light” mystical creatures. Good, almost there.

“If handling them is this easy, maybe I should consider making a contract?”

was a thought that crossed his mind. However, it wasn’t as straightforward in practice. As mentioned by Shade, currently, Luger was merely spinning in place, caught in the prank of the dusk mystical creatures.

The kind and informative conversation was possible thanks to a heightened spirit affinity much greater than any normal Spirit Master and an item inside Leeha’s bag, something Leeha himself had yet to realize. If he had thought a little more, talked a little more, he might have understood.

“Fool, fool! Three days is how long it took for a dinosaur to pass!”

If not for that singular word brought up by one of the Shades, Leeha might have come to realize it too.

“A dinosaur?”

“Woo, woo woo! No, no. Too comfortable near demon and I don’t like it!”

“You’ll get waterlogged, totally soaked!”

“But you can climb up! You won’t need a Shade’s shell anymore!”


Amidst the ruckus of the chattering Shades, Leeha asked. The dinosaur was gone.

At least officially, there was only one entity known to have that grand reputation.

“Wait a moment. The dinosaur you just mentioned, is it Toon?”

“Yes, Toon, Toon! They say Toon passed through here again, Toon!”

“-Really…”

Unintentionally, Leeha stumbled upon information she had not expected to find. Just three days ago, Toon had passed through this place.

※ ※

“Why? Why would Toon?”

His heart rate suddenly increased. Amidst the anxiety and tension, Leeha had many thoughts, but it wasn’t easy to deduce the reason why Toon had passed through. If one were to predict the movements of Bluebeard and the Demon King’s Army, there could be three compressed reasons. One was to restore Toon’s arm.

Magic like healing couldn’t regenerate an arm that had been shattered into pieces and disappeared.

Then, one assumption could be that Toon was heading towards a place with a stronger regeneration magic.

“Or… Toon was moving on its own to gather the monsters for the fourth wave.”

The 『Holy Spirit』 being fully formed means it can’t spread. Individually moving the monsters would have a high chance of them being defeated in detail. Therefore, it was also necessary to consider the possibility that Toon was personally leading them to a single location.

“If it’s not that then… This is the worst assumption.”

And the third,

It was moving to recruit a ‘new force’ of monsters. The Eastern New Continent still didn’t have many users. Even so, was there a need for Toon to personally move and lead the monsters?

Thinking so, the third reason seemed the most plausible. And that new force, whether through persuasion or threats, seemed like an opponent worth Toon’s personal involvement, right?

“What’s the reason Toon passed through here?”

“Kishi! How would I know!? Did it go to its house or what?”

“Eugh, no thanks! Toon’s house?! It’ll be full of those unlucky dinosaurs!”


“It’s a relief it disappeared quickly!”

“Right! We’d become bad guys if we got mixed up with it!”

The Shades burst out in complaint. Leeha’s ears perked up.

“A house? Toon has a house? Full of dinosaurs, you say-”

“Don’t you know? The kingdom of dinosaurs! Toon’s house!”

“Humans are such fools. They know nothing.”

Despite the Shades’ laughter, Leeha didn’t hear them.

“Uh, crazy.”

It was as if the worst assumption had come true.

If Toon wasn’t a standalone creature but, like paleos, a creature that popped out from several tribes?

“Such a monster…

If, as the Shades describe, a ‘kingdom of dinosaurs’, then at the very least, there must be hundreds!

Then, there’s no time to delay any further.

“Which direction did Toon go?”

“Far East! That’s where Toon’s house is!”

“Shades, can you guide me to the exit? Time is of the essence!”

“Kishishis, why should we let you out? What can you even do?”

Leeha clenched her teeth.

Indeed. What could she do?

‘I’ve also cross-checked with Luger… Teleportation doesn’t work around here.’

At least, not ordinary teleportation.

It might be possible for a Sage like Hyein, or someone of a Dragon level or higher, but currently, Hyein is logged out. Besides, if Toon’s house is in the far eastern direction, or east anyway. Alexander is logged in, but…? Could Leeha call him?

Even in this situation, Leeha thought of the quest.

Hadn’t they said not to come with anyone?

Moreover, if it’s been three days since Toon passed, and two days since Brown and Elizabeth passed, it could mean it’s not too far away.

In other words, even if she were to encounter Toon, there’s a high chance she can’t call anyone. Yet, should she still search for Toon? Must she face Toon alone, without anyone’s help?

Leeha recollected what the dusk mystical creatures had said. At the very least, with the guidance of the dusk mystical creatures, it’s possible to escape this forest.

‘To send me off, implies that their favor is necessary… and considering the situation-‘ Leeha mulled over his options.

“Sigh, sigh. At least I know that attacks work….”

He can do it. He must do it.

“Shades, if you would allow me to leave-”

For the purpose of breaking this tough bond, Leeha had to be prepared to take a step forward. For the world, for the new continent, for the fourth wave, to prevent awakening Ghibrid. Setting all that aside, for himself.

“-I will kill Toon for you.”

“Kikiki! A human catching him isn’t possible!”

“To catch a dinosaur? A human? Kiki! This will be fun!”

And with that, Leeha’s daring proposition was accepted. The Shades, known for their playful and mischief-loving nature, didn’t just laugh off Leeha’s seemingly outrageous claim.

“What if? Wouldn’t it be fun? Then how about I record that fun thing and bring it here? What will you do for me in return?”

Leeha beamed broadly, confident that the Shades must be seeing his self-assured smile.

“What should we do for you? Hm? What should we do?”

“But still, a contract? Nah! We don’t like contracts!” exclaimed the Shades, expressing their reluctance to enter into a pact.

“It’s not about whether you’re a spiritualist or a wood elf, we don’t want to make a contract with a human!” they clamored.

Suddenly, another phrase caught Leeha’s ear.

“Mentioning Alen Serna too… fitting well with wood elves – wait, wood elves?”

It reminded him of someone. A dusk spirit that hadn’t been seen for the past 100 years. A wood elf of the same kind as Alen Serna. A player who had stuck with Chiyou without any specific job as a spiritualist or any apparent advantage.

‘Prea… Could it be- is her goal the dusk mystical creatures? Did they side with them to form a pact? Leeha felt like laughing. It might not be the only reason, but it seemed like a plausible guess.

‘The seed of evil. Definitely related. It’s conceivable that the dusk mystical creatures could be affiliated with the demon king’s forces. In that case…’

Leeha smiled. It didn’t have to be a complete success. However, this alone could deal significant damage.

“You don’t have to make a contract with me. Instead!”

“Kikiki, so what should we do instead?”

Leeha laughed as he set his terms, which the spirit Shades gladly accepted. Approximately 3 seconds after accepting the quest, Leeha found himself relocated to the eastern exit of the dark forest.

“It’s different from teleportation… a dimensional shift within the dawn.”

Even in the midst of this, Leeha was eager to extract as much information as possible. One of the most crucial pieces of information was that many locations in the eastern part of the new continent were immune to teleportation. Apart from a few specific points, virtually all forms of spatial movement, including teleportation, were impossible.

‘They seemed mischievous but not liars.’

However, the dawn mystical creatures were different. The power that moved Leeha was a different kind from teleportation, limited to within the dark forest. The ‘deal’ he had made with them had earned Leeha detailed information on Toon’s movement direction and this escape alone.

“To think this entire place was the dark forest. Shouldn’t there be at least one warning sign? Right, Jellypong?”

『Myongmyong?』

Jellypong tilted its head. In the middle of the map left by Brown and Elizabeth, a vast oval could be seen. That was the full extent of the dark forest.

The route to the eastern part of the New Continent without passing through the Dark Forest was so narrow that it was virtually nonexistent. (To be continued…)
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“The Dark Forest is where teleportation spells don’t work. One must walk their way out, and moving at night without the help of a spirit of medicine is practically impossible.”

Meaning, even though the land is longer north to south and shorter east to west, the actual travel time is restricted to daytime, and that too without the aid of blink-level space magic – you are limited to walking or flying spells.

It was no wonder that Toon had only managed to exit the forest three days earlier.

“Above all, my situation is different from Toon’s. If he rests when he wills, it’s certain he didn’t move for hours each day. His stride is long, but I am confident I can catch up.”

It was time for the ‘sleepless nocturnal marches’, honed on the journey to the Dragon Palace, to shine once more.

“Jellypong! From now on, we move in full three-dimensional maneuvers. Got it?”

『Myongmyong!』

“Let’s go!”

Leeha pointed in the direction of their travel, using the moment Toon emerged from the Dark Forest as a guide. Shwoooosh- Shwoooosh-! Relying solely on moonlight and starlight was no issue for Jellypong.

The varied terrain only served as points for Jellypong to extend its arms for three-dimensional maneuvers.

Based on the maps of Elizabeth and Brown, Leeha began moving in a perfect straight line towards Toon.

Most fortunate was that this path was precisely the route Leeha had initially aimed for. On the map, the end of an arrow overlapped with Leeha’s path, marked with the numbers 260, 280, 3,800.

“Levels 260 to 280, sniping range confirmed at 3,800. We’ll start there.”

Facing Toon meant preparing for any situation, and Leeha’s top priority was Black Bass’s quest, something he did not forget.

Before confronting Toon, acquiring at least one more powerful weapon was crucial. How many hours had they been on the move?

Shwoooosh-!

The first hues of dawn began to breach Leeha’s view, just as the sensitivity of the dawn began to fade away. Suddenly, a thought crossed Leeha’s mind.

“… Can I really take on Toon alone? Was this a mistake?”

Maybe calling Luger for help would have been wise?


The thought of inviting the battle-thirsty Luger seemed promising, but Leeha soon shook his head. It was impossible to go back and bring Luger along, especially since he hadn’t even met the spirit of medicine.

“If it’s their first time, someone inexperienced and without knowledge would take at least five days to get out of the Dark Forest, moving only during daylight. It makes sense.”

Now, when even the Trio’s teleportation was unusable, Leeha could only truly rely on himself.

“Jellypong, stop here! Here is good.”

『Myongmyong!』

Relying on the tireless movement of Jellypong, after about 12 hours, Leeha could finally take a break.

On a hill with an open view, right at the top of a terrain somewhere between a hill and a mountain with a steep slope.

The sun was already high in the sky.

“Phew, Jellypong, are you hungry?”

『Mong?』

“Never mind. That’s not necessary. You don’t really eat anything special… Heh heh, I’ll ask the Sea God if there’s anything to upgrade you with later when we visit the Dragon Palace.”

『Bong!』

The eyes that emerged from Jellypong’s separated arm curved into crescents.

Smiling at the pleasant laughter, Leeha compared Elizabeth’s crude map with the surrounding terrain.

“If the triangle on this map represents that mountain peak over there…”

From Leeha’s current position, nothing was visible. A monster being 3,800 meters away meant it couldn’t be seen with the naked eye.

“Jellypong, 『Combat Mode: Agile Type』!”

『Mong!』

Poof-!

From Leeha’s body, Jellypong detached and formed hands like the Thousand-Handed Guanyin, keeping watch over the surroundings.


“Kill anything that approaches me.”

It was a special measure taken solely to focus on observation and sniping. Only after opening the scope and adjusting it to the maximum magnification did Leeha start to look around, determined not to miss even the slightest movement.

“I guess I do need a stabilizer after all.”

Using a stabilizer, which he hadn’t used in a while, wrapped around his waist and mounted on the barrel, even the vibrations caused by hand tremors were suppressed. Yet, searching for something in the maximum magnification was no easy task. With just a slight twist of the barrel, the landscape within the scope at maximum magnification jumped dozens of meters, making smooth observation difficult. The surrounding landscape itself didn’t differ much from that of the Old Continent. While in the Old Continent, it was common to spot a nearby village or a distant city through the scope, always revealing some artificial structure or road. But here, such elements were completely absent. The place, appearing untouched and purely natural, felt somewhat unfamiliar even to Leeha.

“Hmm, perhaps beyond Zone 07 looks like this. No, that area has more mountainous terrain, so there wouldn’t be a place where the horizon is visible.”

It reminded him of a place in America or Canada, a beautiful and desolate location where one might expect such scenery to exist. Even now, Toon must be moving hastily. There was enough to cause impatience, but Leeha calmed his mind. 10 minutes, 15 minutes, 35 minutes.

Leeha’s gaze moved from a weed-filled plain to hills, to latecomers, to hidden mountains, constantly changing. Occasionally, something that looked like an animal appeared, but it was too small to be considered a monster. In the New Continent, especially searching for monsters above level 260 was not an easy task. Without overlooking the possibility of flying type monsters, he moved from below to above, from above to below, and then a click to the left. With extreme caution, Leeha continued his observation. Still, nothing appeared.

“It can’t be for nothing. Just seeing the number 3,800 tells me that I should have the ability to see and use something here at this point in this place.”

If Elizabeth had ill intentions, monsters should have been visible here. If there are no monsters? Leeha might consider Elizabeth’s quest and map a “diversion.”

If Elizabeth is sincere. Or even if it’s a decoy out of malice, there definitely should be monsters here.

“There definitely are.”

40 minutes, 55 minutes, 1 hour and 10 minutes. Even after making a full round, nothing appeared.

“It’s okay. They’re here. There must be. Let’s start from the beginning again.”

After concluding all observations, Leeha returned to the starting point and began observing again. Had he missed anything before? Had he carelessly overlooked any area? As he started observing again, something very small caught Leeha’s eye. In the waters, creating a slight ripple – something quite different from the water striders usually causing such ripples – Leeha focused on that spot. Slowly emerging was a creature unlike any dinosaur, with a tail swollen like a club and an appearance that seemed to be a kind of dinosaur, but the size was no joke. Moreover, it was covered all over in a shell-like armor, prickled with horn-like protrusions akin to the shell of an ancient warship.

Leeha’s lips curved up.

“At levels 260 to 280, that’s the least I would expect.”

Leeha immediately began to measure the size of the target. Knowing the size of the target is essential to determining the distance, and only by determining the distance can one adjust for an impeccably accurate shot, free of even the slightest margin of error.

The length of the body seems to be around 20 meters, give or take. While there are individual differences, it’s more than twice the length of the largest crocodile known to exist on Earth.

Its low posture and quadrupedal movement gave it the appearance of a crawling creature, so although it wasn’t very tall, its body length was significant.

The hide seemed exceptionally tough. At this rate, even Black Bass’s bullets might not penetrate it. Considering that, the target area seemed decent overall.


However, the likelihood of the damage not fully taking effect depending on the area hit was high. For an instant kill, there was only one spot to aim for.

‘The hide might as well be impenetrable from the back to the tail. The head looks hard too… The only area not covered by that horned hide sticks out just one place.

The neck, or rather, the cervical spine.

The neck area, connecting the head and the back, was largely covered by hide as well. However, the joints needed to move, leaving some flesh exposed.

‘Without a reference object for scale, this is tricky.’

The body length is around 200 meters.

The radius of the cervical region, which could be targeted for an instant kill, was roughly 40 to 60 centimeters at a distance of around 3,800 meters.

But in sniping, words like ‘approximately’ are unnecessary.

Especially when the target area is extremely small, even more precise observation was required.

“Sigh.”

In the end, the reference point Leeha chose was a small bird flying around the monster.

‘I’ve never seen a bird as small as a sparrow here. In the New Continent, even birds are bigger. It had to be at least the size of a pigeon.’

Assuming the size of the bird is about 30 centimeters, what’s the size of the monster?

92…340 is definitely too high. Between 2200 and 2300, much closer to 230. The length of the monster within the current scope view is only a few hundred.

If the original size of the target is 23 meters, what is the distance between the sniper and the target currently?

Leeha didn’t need much time. All these calculations were just a bit more concrete feedback for Leeha’s ‘instinctual’ sniping system.

‘It’s no wonder Sergeant Kim disliked me. The distance to the target is about 3,815~3,816 meters. Moving at a very slow pace.’

Wind speed and direction don’t matter. Nothing in the flight path will obstruct Leeha’s view.

No need for a curved trajectory. Only one thing remained.

“Haaah… Let’s go.”

Disengage the safety.

Leeha pulled the trigger.

–!

『Bang!』

The sudden gunshot made Jellypong momentarily turn towards Leeha.

A shot, a direct hit, a splintered cervical spine.

The monster, its neck completely severed, turned into light.

『You have completed the Black Bass’s Seal-5 quest.』

『You have learned the skill – Ghost in the Shell.』

『Black Bass’s Seal-6 quest has been generated.』

『You’ve earned the achievement – One shot, one kill – Ankylosaur.』

“Excellent job, Jellypong! Come back, let’s set off again!”

『Myongmyong!』

Leeha licked his lips as the system windows popped up in succession. Compared to the confusing skills, what was this result? In the world, what kind of name is this – so adolescent yet cool! Is this the first time living up to the name of Black Bass? Ghost in the Shell…

“It’s like, the soul within the shell of a bullet. A total, soul-shattering strike!”

As Jellypong’s arms stretched out again, Leeha opened the quest.

Alright, the skill description is-

(To be continued…)
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The first thing that was checked was the description of the skill.

The thought of what the 6th quest of Black Bass might entail seemed absurd, and Leeha frankly didn’t want to confirm it just yet.

“Let’s eat the fruit first, though.”

And so, Leeha opened the skill window.

The moment he checked the detailed information of Ghost in the Shell, written so stylishly.

“What the? Em? Ahhhhh!”

Leeha could finally understand the true meaning behind what Elizabeth had said once before.

“If used well… Yes. It would be perfect with that thing I acquired recently, wouldn’t it? I chose it as bait, just in case…”

In Leeha’s mind, battle simulations were already running. What strategy should he use to confuse the enemy and maximize his own attack?

The sequence of using skills?

Which parts to attack?

“From which angle should I fire? The choice of battlefield is also crucial.”

Leeha nodded to himself.

The enemy this time is Toon. And it’s likely to be a 1:1 fight with Toon.

Even with Jellypong acting like an automatic barrier, even with the addition of the Force Barrier skill, it wouldn’t be highly effective.

“It could end in a single hit. It might even die. Under no circumstances should he get close. Best to snipe from a distance as much as possible!”

Of course, having already faced Toon, Leeha knew this.

With the enhanced Black Bass, instant death seemed difficult. The damn thing’s level was inscrutable… Regardless of the damage not getting through, the last shot was to the eyeball. A bullet burrowed above the eye and it didn’t die. Either it missed the brain – or it can survive like a dragon, even with its head blown off.

There might be a part similar to a dragon’s heart.


Remembering Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’, who survived having its skull completely crushed, Leeha shivered.

A weak spot that could instantly kill it must be found.

If not, countless bullets must be fired into the creature to bring its level down to zero.

“If it can be instantly killed, that’s best. But if not, there’s no helping it.”

Toon’s weak spot wouldn’t just pop out if requested by the Holy Grill, after all.

“Well, if it doesn’t exist, it doesn’t. What a pity, a one-hit one kill achievement would have been nice. If it were to that extent, then 『Ankylosaur』 would have been named-grade. Furthermore, for a sub-boss, its performance is disappointing…”

Meaning, it was either a field boss or something equivalent.

However, the achievement of strength +15, agility +2, intelligence +1 in stat distribution disappointed Leeha.

Even considering the Hall of Fame, the practical help in agility and intelligence amounted to a mere 10 points for Leeha.

“Sigh. The bad luck continues. Or mentioning luck now just makes me anxious…”

Achievements could be forgotten.

Another monster would come along to gain from.

What was immediately important for Leeha was something else. Leeha tightly closed his eyes. He wasn’t in danger since he was being moved automatically by Jellypong. He closed his eyes for one reason only.

“Please!”

Pop! Leeha opened the quest window. 『Seal of Black Bass-6』

Description:

“This creature is alive, the more it tastes blood, the sooner it will awaken. The day its rightful owner appears, black Bass will awaken once more…”

The legendary dwarf placed seven seals on Black Bass. The legendary rifle waits for its user to awaken it.

Objectives: Kill a monster above level 300 with a single hit from a distance of at least 5000m) (0/1)

Rewards: ???


The sixth quest condition for Black Bass.

Leeha had to kill a monster at a staggering distance of 5km, with a power level of 300!

“No way… Quest number five was at 3,500m for level 250 monsters, and that was already a nightmare! Why does this condition have to be-”

The quests from one to four for Black Bass had increased by 5000m in distance and 20 levels per quest.

When it changed for the first time from quest four to five, increasing by 1,000m and 40 levels, he thought it would stay that way.

“Damn it! To be alive, is it really alive? Is it intentionally trying to screw me over!”

And now, increasing the distance by another 1,500m and the levels by 50!

“To find and defeat a monster of level 300, where the hell am I supposed to find one? Nothing in the New Continent would come close to that level.

Didn’t the recently achievement unlocked Ankylosaur only have monsters at a level of around 280?

“It would have to be at least field boss level. Dammit.”

Without any sources of information in the New Continent, finding a field boss would be as hard as picking stars from the sky.

Leeha sighed.

“At least I should be thankful that 5,000m is within range.”

His current effective range was around 4,000m. Using her snipe skill, he could easily reach up to 5,000m.

Considering her current scope’s performance, sniping was definitely possible. Meaning, the difficulty of this quest wasn’t about the distance or the gun’s performance, but solely depended on her information gathering and willpower.

That was somewhat a relief.

Kijung: “Hey, Leeha hyung! Can you come over in a few days if I call you?”

Leeha: “Huh? Why, Kijung?”

As Leeha mulled over the quest’s requirements and how to obtain information on level 300 monsters, Kijung’s voice rang in his head, sounding rather serious.

Kijung: “The Virtue Knights have caused trouble again.”


Leeha: “Sigh… Those crazy bastards, what now? Don’t tell me it’s about ‘Subjugation’ again?”

Kijung: “Yeah. The Carp, dog, boar paleos, and even the Cows were targeted. And now, the Red Goats and the Black Cranes are in chaos too because of the other knight orders.”

Leeha was furiously cursing internally.

Why on earth would they provoke the mystical creatures? There’s nothing good in upsetting them!

‘It’s always those with good abilities who are psychopaths! The Carp spirit showdown was never easy, so how did they manage to suppress that? The Boar paleo’s charge attacks are no joke either!’

Those were the ones that could knock down large trees in a single charge. Even Lark might manage, but it was hard for Leeha to believe that the entire Virtue order could win.

Leeha: “Sigh… Sorry. I’m in a place where teleporting isn’t possible right now. Getting back is a bit tricky.”

Kijung: “No, it’s fine for now. But later on.”

Leeha: “Hmm, that ‘later’ though—if things go south here, I’m not sure. I’ll make it if I can.”

If he could find a teleportation point, he could return at any time, but if he couldn’t find one, he’d have to consider the possibility that he might not be able to return to the western region of the New Continent until he met Elizabeth.

If he wanted to go back, he would have to walk, or die, neither of which was desirable.

Kijung: “Really? Where are you? Never mind. It’s okay, I’ll handle it. If it looks like it will take over a week, I should move faster.”

Leeha: “Huh? What do you plan on doing? Even if you team up with Nara… That guy is dangerous. Try not to involve him as much as possible.”

It was the strongest piece of advice Leeha could offer.

The exact effects of the 『Sacrifice』 skill were unknown, but even Kijung would have a hard time overcoming Lark.

Hence, Leeha expected that Kijung would move with Nara’s Sacred Knight order.

Of course, that was because Leeha didn’t yet know about the 1:1 incident between Nara and Lark.

Kijung: “Direct confrontation is the only way without knowing the true nature of that sword. We’ll have to find another solution.”

Leeha: “Another way? Oh, right. Better to request a national level diplomatic dispatch. Ask for proper cooperation. That’ll work be–”

Kijung: “No, Lark wouldn’t listen to that, hyung.”

Leeha: “Huh? And then?”

However, Kijung was aware of the confrontation between Shin Nara and Lark.

Above all, the Virtue Knights are becoming increasingly powerful day by day, with their 『Subjugation』 achievements.

Comparing then and now, their total stats must have surpassed 100 points difference.

Therefore, facing the Sacred Knights head-on would predict significant losses, so Kijung did not choose that method.

Kijung: “We have to make them listen.”

Leeha: “How?”

Kijung: “In the name of the Holy Knight.”

Kijung had another path to choose for this reason.

Leeha: “Eh, ehm? Kijung?”

Kijung: “With Paladins and elites, I’ll sweep away the monsters gathering for the 4th wave. If I become a Holy Knight within the next week – under the Pope’s name, I can make a ‘Strong Cooperation Request’ to all the knight orders assembled in the New Continent. Unless Lark acts alone, they’ll have no choice but to listen to me. At least the 480 of the Virtue Knights will have to obey me.”

Leeha: “Just, wait- Kijung! You, worrying–I know. Becoming a Holy Knight means you can’t play recklessly like now. But still.”

Sigh.

Once again, Leeha heard Kijung’s sigh.

Kijung: “But we can’t just leave it like this, right? Hehe, right? If the mystical creatures entirely lose trust in humans, it’s a bigger loss for us. But, having human knight orders fight each other would only please Bluebeard.”

What moved Kijung was not the pressure, but a stronger sense of responsibility.

Thinking of the greater good and knowing to sacrifice oneself, Leeha admired Kijung anew.

There were few responses that wouldn’t reveal that admiration.

Leeha: Um… That answer sounds really foolish. But it’s just like you.”

Kijung: Giggle, oh! That’s daring of you, talking to a future cardinal!”

Leeha: Pfft, you little. Okay. I’ll join you as soon as I’m done with my work.

Kijung: Okay! That’s reassuring. You do your work well too! See you next!”

As he ended the call, Leeha wore a proud smile.

He sincerely wished to provide even a little bit of strength to his cousin hyung striving to break through to the next level.

‘To do that, I need to catch Toon as soon as possible.’

The 1:1 confrontation with Toon, which seemed impossible.

Endless battles unfolded in Leeha’s mind, drawing confidence through Kijung.

Day turned to night, and night turned to day again.

A virtual combat record spun over 30 hours: 69 battles, 0 wins, 69 losses.

“Haah… the terrain… indeed, the terrain is important. Not just the terrain’s contours, but if the surrounding environment doesn’t support, you’re definitely caught. To perfectly”

『Thud!』

“Huh!?”

The Jellypong, moving at a constant speed, suddenly stopped.

Leeha felt a momentary pressure from the abrupt halt.

『Mumble mumble mumble.』

The small voice of Jellypong tickled Leeha’s ears. Having been immersed in an imaginary world, Leeha finally managed to break forward. Walking through the trees, each step resonated, spreading from the treetops.

Leeha finally discovered the entrance to Toon’s Forest and slipped out of the Pine Harbor with a sense of relief, remembering the past six hours.

“Be careful, Jellypong”, he said to Jellypong, lowering her voice as much as possible. Jellypong’s arms, which had wandered here and there from Leeha’s chest, retreated back again. The distance between Leeha and Toon was about 2000 meters. (To be continued…)
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Koo-woong! Koo-woong!

With each step Toon took, the nearby winged beasts were startled.

Leeha was keeping his distance as much as possible while following him.

“If I maintain this distance, I won’t lose him.”

The initial urgency he had felt when he first began to chase Toon had considerably subsided.

“He can’t teleport. If he could, he wouldn’t be moving around making such a racket.”

Having realized that he won’t lose sight of Toon, all that remained was to keep calm and continue the pursuit.

Leeha fell back a bit more to the 4000m point from the 2000m point.

Ideally, he would have liked to back off to 3000m, but that terrain wouldn’t favor Jellypong’s movements.

“That guy… he can definitely see me from 2,400m. Even if he doesn’t, the possibility is clear. Let’s move as carefully as possible.”

Toon had definitely noticed Leeha at the demon’s base.

It might have just been a glance around, but Leeha was certain. He felt the gaze directed at him.

“Our eyes definitely met. He saw me.”

Not only was his vision sharp, but his movements were agile as well. Ideally, he would switch to firing multiple warheads instead of a single one to kill Toon in one strike, but that wasn’t an easy decision to make.

“Whether it’s multiple warheads or a single shot, if I fail, it’s over. Whether he kills me or escapes, it’s highly unlikely that I’ll get another chance like this.”

This is precisely why Leeha had to be cautious.

The most damage could indeed be done with multiple warheads.

Those weren’t subsonic but rather regular bullets.

“Given my agility is 3,611, so 36 shots should be feasible.”


Multiple warheads meant increasing the number of bullets but at the cost of reduced damage. If Toon hasn’t detected him yet, and he gets classified as a ‘Shadow Hitman’?

“Around 60,000 damage per bullet. If 36 bullets hit, that’s over 2 million in damage.”

However, this was purely theoretical.

Shooting multiple warheads from a distance of 4000 to 3000? Toon would inevitably notice the attack initiating out of thin air.

Dodging bullets traveling at 830m/s might seem improbable, but if he catches on, who knows what might happen.

Furthermore, how tough his hide and bones are, and the real damage a bullet could inflict remained uncertain, making it hard to relax.

“The problem is I can’t gauge his defense at all. Huh, even if I switch to subsonic bullets- no, it’s not just about the noise…, it’s definitely an issue of instinct. Detecting and then dodging, that kind of type.”

If it were just about detecting the sound, then regular bullets might actually be better.

The bullet would reach him before the sound.

It’s not about calculation and strategy, tactics, but rather, those who move on instinct, like Luger or Igor, are indeed more troublesome opponents for Leeha.

“The highest chance of winning is by revealing myself.”

If there’s no escape, then that’s it. Simply throw the prey to him. Once Leeha reveals himself, Toon will surely come to that place.

“Then, unleash the shots.”

Even though he wouldn’t qualify for the Shadow Hitman title, it still works out. The damage per bullet drops to 30,000 for the multiple warheads after being spotted, but hitting all 36 shots.

That itself accumulates to over a million in damage.

“A certain 1 million over an unstable 2 million.”

That is to say, not long-range sniping, but upon revealing himself and closing in to an optimal distance.

When it comes to a lifeform, it’s at a distance they cannot possibly react to.

Then at point-blank, feed the multiple warheads!

Leeha believed this to be the best course of action.


“Damn it, I lost every simulation… but that was when I hadn’t considered variables.”

Apart from simple sniping, Leeha had many cards up his sleeve. Those are the “living variables” that can’t be measured by mere simulations.

In other words, there was no other way but to verify them on the field.

“Sigh… However many days it takes, it’s going to be tough. Right, Jellypong?”

『Myongmyong.』

“A suitable location was a must, strategy had to be formed… Even if one were to hurry, it wouldn’t result in reaching the tribe’s territory in just a day or two”, said the dusk spirit, shade, who had clearly stated the far east of the New Continent as the location. Considering the vastness of the New Continent, there should be at least ten days of leeway. But what pressed for time, more urgently, was Elizabeth.

“Would it be better to drag Elizabeth along? But how would they recognize me there? How would they know through which route I’d pass?”

he pondered, realizing that nothing about their whereabouts had been written on the single map left behind. Meaning, as he would naturally head to the eastern part of the New Continent, they were ‘bound to meet’.

None of this made sense to him.

“Ugh, the worst case is Elizabeth observing me by some means, seeing me walk with Toon. Ah, this is such a headache, really.”

With the ambiguity surrounding whether Elizabeth was friend or foe, the issue with Toon had become a pressing matter with a real time constraint.

Swish-swish! Observing Jellypong moving like a spider, arms stretching and bending for movement, he finally made his decision.

“I have to kill him anyway. I can’t just let Toon go.”

Entering Toon’s tribe and allowing a hundred or so of those dinosaur creatures to reach the western part of the New Continent wasn’t an option. He must be killed before then.

“Quickly… yet, slowly.”

The contradiction of the situation was enough to rush him, yet, he deliberately tried to maintain calmness. However, staying calm wasn’t always possible. A decision had to be made at some point, especially now when waiting for an opportunity with a 100% success rate of killing wasn’t feasible.

“I guess it’s time to take a risk.”

As a sniper, it was something he shouldn’t do. He knew that. But what he was engaged in now wasn’t sniping. He gently stroked Black Bass.

“This time, it’s a hunt.”

Hunting a mutant dinosaur twice the size of a Tyrannosaurus from Dinosaur Park was the task ahead. His eyes sparkled.


He followed Toon until the darkness of the night engulfed any sound of Toon’s footsteps.

※ ※ “Notification to all countries has been completed. We’ve received positive responses from everyone”, reported Fernand.

“Uh huh, as expected. What about Browless?”

“He seemed slightly taken aback but didn’t refuse.”

“That’s good to hear”, sighed the Pope in relief. Even if everyone agreed, there was still a chance that Browless could disrupt this emergency secret meeting. Since the letter sent by Elizabeth was only understandable by Browless, without him, the bishops of the Vatican and the mage associations of various countries wouldn’t be able to grasp its content.

“However… some have expressed uncertainty about attending on the proposed date. While they welcome participation, palace duties… they’ve requested an additional week”, fernand relayed.

“Have you heard the detailed reasons?”

the Pope inquired after some thought.

When Fernand had broached the subject with the King of Fibiel, the discussion on scheduling wasn’t initiated by the King.

“It’s unclear. But the mage chief association of Fibiel mentioned an unavoidable commitment. The King seemed inclined to accommodate this, given he plans to have the mage chief present at the meeting.”

“The mage chief, lotzak?”

“Yes.”

The Pope stroked his chin. His expression showed displeasure, but Fernand didn’t particularly mind. The Pope disliked all mage chiefs due to the mess during the Second Human-Demon War.

‘Using a small village as bait to lure the Demon Army and incinerate them in one go. I’ve read about it. Considering the current Pope was also traversing battlefields back then, it’s natural there were many disagreements.’

Fernand didn’t dwell further on Rotzak’s “unavoidable commitment.”

Being a messenger from the Ezwen religious state, it wasn’t his place to pry, nor did he harbor any special thoughts about Rotzak.

“I see. And about other countries?”

“In Minis, they’ve reported that they will be organizing a national knight order for about five days, but since I visited Fibiel after, I simply responded with an understanding.”

“Organizing a knight order? Is that necessary?”

“Yes. It is said that a significant number of Minis’s knight order suffered considerable damage while securing and protecting the ‘Divine Staff’ in the New Continent.”

“Such a shame… The faith of the Minis knight order is commendable.”

The pope, knowing nothing, nodded, and Fernand, equally uninformed, responded with a “Yes.”

The fact they all—Fernand included—couldn’t disclose was not due to the ‘Divine Staff’ but because they tried to subdue the paleo tribe and were wiped out by Leeha.

“Alright. If we accept Fibiel’s request, it will be two weeks from now? Let’s have a meeting here then”, said the pope, to which Fernand nodded.

In two weeks, a secret meeting with the kings of four countries and their most trusted figures will be held at the Ezwen papacy.

Up to this point, only two people clearly knew this fact. One was obviously Fernand, who was spreading the news. The other was Kidd, one of the three musketeers, closely monitoring the situation in Browless due to a quest.

“Are you really going?”

“Hmm, I should. Kidd, would you prefer I didn’t?”

“I’m not sure. However, Brown and Elizabeth both said in unison to protect you. Maybe they sense some event coming… Do you think they gave that letter to Fernand thinking it would be properly delivered?”

“Right. No way. Not Elizabeth. She must have threatened a few times that she’d blow his head off if he didn’t deliver it properly. But Brown is not so easy. He’s ‘slightly less’ cunning than me but surely anticipated a situation like this.”

Browless smiled, recalling his old friends. Yet, even in making light of Brown, Kidd thought of the other two absent friends in this moment.

However, the mood wasn’t entirely pleasant.

With a solemn voice, Kidd warned Browless, “If you’re aware, I think it’s best not to go. For your safety—”

“Ha. Funny, Kidd. It’s not just Ezwen. What if something happens here? Can you protect me?”

Browless’s smile hinted not just at affection for his pupil.

But rather a vibrant confidence of someone still active in the field. In essence, it also meant, “You still have a long way to go”, to Kidd.

Kidd understood but didn’t bow his head. Normally, he would’ve answered modestly, but his resolve was firm.

Browless seemed ready to head to the training grounds at any moment, but today he was in a particularly good mood.

“In two weeks, right? Leeha and Luger will probably come by then. Showing the kings my friends’ letters doesn’t scare me… but it might make me nervous if you guys decide to join.”

“What do you mean?”

“I’m talking about charisma, charisma. Haha! I wonder what those guys could’ve written about. Still, I need to always appear solemn and cool to you, don’t I?”

“Yes, yes?”

Kidd was taken aback by the light-hearted joke and laughter. This relaxed attitude wasn’t what he wanted at all.

‘Brown and Elizabeth’s being identified as ‘public enemies’ seemed almost certain.’

Regardless of their stories, they had attacked humans at the source of evil.

Thus, a meeting couldn’t possibly be as light-hearted as Browless’s laughter suggested! Yet, this relaxation?

“I must investigate. I need to understand Brown’s motives for sending such a letter.”

While Leeha continued to chase after Toon and Luger wandered in the Dark Forest,

Kidd was struggling through his quest.

Simultaneously, another person, no less determined, screamed while lifting his sword and shield.

“Maintain the formation! Do not break our formation! We need at least five paladins to stop the giant monsters’ charge! Safety is top priority for the Byulcho group too! Bobae-ssi! How many left?”

“Thirty-four! We’re almost done!”
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It was only after the enormous elephant, with six tusks, had fallen that Kijung could finally catch his breath. Among the forty-four beasts, there were four giant monsters, and forty were regular large monsters; however, it was always the giant monsters that proved to be the tougher opponents.

“Phew… Great work, everyone! Let’s head back to Juma for reorganization! We’ll move again as soon as we get more information!”

Kijung’s shout was met with a unanimous response from the three hundred Paladins.

Biyemi, who had been playfully chirping nearby, was startled.

“I’m still not used to it.”

“It’s only been two days; actually becoming accustomed to it would be the scary part, ms. Biyemi.”

“Ki ki, Jin Gonggong-ssi, as a Druid, you adapt quickly, don’t you? Well, it must be amusing to deal with humans after playing with beasts that don’t even talk.”

“What are you saying! That’s not it at all!”

Despite being twice the size of Biyemi, the giant Jin Gonggong was no match for his verbal agility. Hyein, watching the scene, sat down on a nearby rock, tapping the ground with his staff, an image of an old man in every aspect.

Tale teased, “Hyein, it seems like joining our dojo might be below your dignity, but surely you don’t lack the time.”

“Aha, well… Excuses are easy to come by when one denies having time.”

Bobae, trying to ease Kijung’s tension, said, “I know you’re in a hurry, but don’t rush too much. We’ve already defeated five groups in just two days. Isn’t that fast?”

“No, it’s not enough”, Kijung dismissed her attempt to console him.

In two days, they had vanquished five groups, with each group composed of 40 to 50 monsters, which meant they had taken down over 200 monsters. However, this was not sufficient for Kijung.

“The small groups aren’t much of a threat anyway. But… it takes too long to find out where these creatures are moving across this vast land, when, and how~~~” Kijung truly wished they would appear in larger groups – 300 or 500 at a time.

His progress towards the quest for his class change to Holy Knight was barely at 5%.

“Did you speak to Nara-ssi?”

he asked.

“Of course, I told her since you’re taking the lead, to not worry and just wait because you’ll soon suppress those Virtue bastards!”


“O-Our Kijung- cough, yes, what did she say?”

“I don’t know. Nara is like that. She said she was heading to the paleo tribe not long ago… She’ll handle it.”

Bobae shrugged. Despite their attempts to dissuade him, it was clear that given Nara’s nature, she wouldn’t just sit back and watch.

“Sigh… There’s nothing good about Sacred and Virtue clashing. Maybe we shouldn’t stop by Juma City and just continue searching for the monster groups.”

“Right now? But even for a Paladin-”

“Yes, right now. Everyone! Unfortunately, we’ll catch just one more group before heading back to the village! I promise to treat you all grandly then!”

Bobae tried to interject, but Kijung was already marching towards the Paladins, determined.

Understanding that Kijung’s haste wasn’t just for his own sake, Bobae felt a similar pang of urgency.

“Hmm. Roaming aimlessly like this might end up wasting more time… Perhaps there’s a better wa- Ahhh!?”

Bobae clapped.

With a resounding smack, the sound was so thunderous that the people around turned to look at her.

“Kijung! Kijung!”

“Yes?”

“Do you by any chance have that person from last time added? No, no, would she accept your whisper?”

“Who are you talking about?”

“Who else! The person who, at this moment, can catch the movements of monsters better than anyone else!”

Bobae spread her hand and covered her eyes with it.

Though a simple gesture, the ‘New Continent Expeditioner’ members quickly realized who Bobae was talking about.

“Doctor Dooooom.”

“Right, if it’s her, with her Oracle profession-”


“Rubini-nim would be enough! Just turn on that map!”

“Why not just recruit her directly? Teehee.”

As the members of the Byulcho faction each chimed in, Kijung’s body trembled.

“Bobae!”

“Yikes! Why are you embarrassing me like this!?”

As Kijung whirled Bobae around in a movie-like manner with a swift lift, Tale, Hyein, Jin Gonggong, and Biyemi each had their distinct expressions.

“Recording complete. Teehee, gotta show it to Hi-Hi.”

Biyemi murmured, to which Jin Gonggong moved closer and said, “Let me watch it too.”

“Goats, pigs, dogs, cows, carp… It’s like some kind of animal farm. Sigh. Are there no chickens?”

“Technically, it was pigs, bison, and carp. Anyway, there are also chickens.”

Lark, yawning endlessly, was corrected by Pung.

The Virtuous Knight Order, taking over the paleo tribes as if a post-dinner exercise, had effectively subdued all the paleos in the far west of the New Continent that Lark had encountered. Those in the west he hadn’t met were also on the brink of being subdued.

“Last time’s test concluded without any reaction from the Red Goat paleo tribe, subdued by two Knight Orders.”

“Hmm, no Silence reaction effect either?”

“Really? I was sure Leeha would pull something. Was she just not there at the time? Did we leak the right info?”

Lark slightly nodded.

“Of course. The Sacred Knights would all know. And another thing will start at the Black Crane paleo in about 30 minutes. If Leeha doesn’t show up there either- well, we’ll have to think.”

Pung thought, ‘So even Lark can be wrong.’

But Lark himself didn’t think so.

Most of Lark’s guesses were spot on, which spoke volumes about his insight.


“If Sacred knows, then Shin Nara knows. If Shin Nara knows, Leeha would too. Just watching the 『Subjugation』… It’s not like her. Interesting.”

“Oh really? Are you friends with Leeha, captain?”

“Do you have to be friends to know? Leeha reeks. A strong smell thick around her.”

Lark crinkled his nose. Pung found it surprising how someone as informal and light-hearted as Lark could be a captain.

“Anyway, to get to the Chicken paleo, we need to go near the source of evil- um, wait.”

“Why? What about Leeha?”

Pushing Lark, who was fixated on Leeha, aside, Pung shook his head.

“No, someone else.”

“Damn, it’s Shin Nara.”

Without a response from Pung, Lark could guess.

Combining the tense expression on Pung’s face with the current list of nuisances, there was only one answer.

“Are the ones who went to Black Crane part the Colosseo Knights? How many from the Sacred Knights did they bring?”

Lark tried to compare the strength of the Minis-affiliated Knights with that of the Sacred Knights.

If the numbers suggested they could overpower the Sacred Knights by a factor of two and a half, then the Colosseo Knights might be able to subdue the Sacred Knights as well.

However, Pung shook his head at Lark’s question.

“What? Why?”

“Did she come alone?”

The one who stood against the Colosseo Knights was a single person from Shin Nara.

Pung was listening to the conversation in real time.

Lark was taken aback for a moment but merely made a sound of acknowledgment.

“… Huh? Shin Nara alone? Fine. Leave it to me then. That lady is quite the apostle of justice. No matter how high-ranked you are, daring to face the Colosseo Knights alone—”

“But, she is holding them off?”

Pung’s face grew darker. At that point, Lark could no longer just stand by.

“Sigh… Seriously. The Minis Knights are all dead, all of them. It’s true that it was just one person from Shin Nara?”

“Yes. There’s no one around and— there’s also no effect from Silence, so it’s clear that high-ranking individuals are absent—”

“Got it. Head to the paleo chicken first. I’ll tidy up and follow.”

“Are you planning to go alone?”

Without responding to Pung, Lark immediately activated the crystal ball. With the remaining time until the orb activated, he sighed.

“What can I do when Dame Shin refuses to cooperate? I’ll be back soon.”

Swoosh! Moments later, having teleported near the Black Crane paleo Tribe, he was faced with the sight of about a dozen milky corpses of the Colosseo Knights scattered on the ground.

“Dame Shin! My, it’s been a long time.”

“The, the Virtue Knights!”

“It’s the 『Rainbow Knight』!”

The users of the Colosseo Knights were even more surprised to see Lark.

In the meantime, Shin Nara, who had created a hole in the knee joint of one of the Colosseo Knights, was actually smiling. Lark, observing her reaction, asked.

“You were expecting this, weren’t you?”

“Of course. Who else but you, Lark-ssi, would come?”

“You also anticipated that I would come alone, not just as Virtue?”

Shin Nara nodded with a smile.

Lark was wary of her smile. A master of Shin Nara’s caliber would not be unaware of Lark’s skills and weapons.

Could she really smile like that knowing Virtue is not around?

The Colosseum might be considered inferior to Virtue, but they are not an easy knight order to deal with.

If Lark joined in, it would be unimaginable for Shin Nara to handle them alone.

“Yet, you’re smiling…? There’s something more.

Lark drew his sword, pointing its tip directly at Shin Nara who also changed her stance.

Having darted around fighting the Colosseo Knights, she now stood completely still, ready.

“En garde. Remember?”

“Of course, I remember! I also remember what you taught me. First is timing, second is tempo, third is distance! But you plan to fight again with that?”

Lark exclaimed enthusiastically.

What kind of confidence is this? What enables her to smile so?

Shin Nara’s smile remained unbroke.

It wasn’t a facade to hide tension.

Rather, her face was filled with even brighter smiles.

“Yes. And thanks to Lark-ssi, I’ve been working on adding another principle to our Sacred Knights’ creed. I need to test it, though.”

“Oh, if it was helpful, then I’m glad. So, what are you adding?”

Lark scrutinized Shin Nara’s stance. Her arms were slightly extended in a fencing ready stance.

At a glance, one might consider it an awkward pose, but the posture of en garde alone is critical in evaluating a fencer’s level.

Lark appreciated the ‘ready stance’ Shin Nara adopted in full.

‘Back then, she moved so fast I couldn’t see properly— wait, did she always wear those boots?’

Then, he noticed Shin Nara’s footwear.

The type was unclear, but previously, it was a long steel boot that covered up to the calves.

But now?

At first glance, it looked like ordinary sneakers.

Given the unique materials of Middle Earth, they appeared more akin to ballet shoes than sneakers.

Seeing Lark observing her foot, Shin Nara subtly extended one foot.

“Your observational skills are, as expected, excellent. Anyway, you’ve given me quite the dilemma. I meant to choose a better pair, but then I found these.”

Listening to her gentle voice, Lark realized. The unseen shoes, the dilemma, the better pair. He understood what these three keywords meant.

(To be continued…)
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“Does the Vatican now produce sneakers too?”

“Ah, well, if you want to call them sneakers, sure… But this choice was entirely because of Lark-ssi. Only for you!”

Nara was more excited than usual. Lark had a bad feeling about this. Situations like these are never good. If one wears such a smile in battle, it signifies full confidence, the kind only a high-ranking fighter would have. It’s not something to calculate lightly! ‘We need to end the fight quickly-‘ Just as Lark was about to charge forward, Nara tapped her right heel against her left heel lightly. Like a ballerina preparing to dance, she then opened her mouth. 『Alter Cabaret』.”

※ ※ Woosh—! It happened in an instant, a different kind of dome formed around Lark and Nara, unlike the usual space lock. If a space lock includes an unspecified number of people within its range, approaching the size of a soccer field, this new dome was only big enough for Lark and Nara, akin to a classroom. This dome, with a semblance of transparency, had a shade close to cyan, making both figures within appear somewhat ghostly to the Colosseum knights outside.

“cabaret…? Are you talking about a dance hall?”

“Mm, it seems there are cabarets in your country too. The meaning might be a bit different… but yes, it’s the original word, cabare.”

“A place for dancing, a cabaret… with ‘Alter’ attached to it, a shrine for gods—ah, I see.”

“You catch on quickly. This means a place where offerings for the ancient gods outside of Ahlo dance endlessly.”

Nara’s muscles twitched. It wasn’t an attack. It was a sophisticated move, a mere muscular movement drawing the opponent’s attack, almost like a check by a master. Lark quickly raised his sword. Knowing he’d be at a disadvantage if Nara initiated the attack, his action was natural.

“If you insist on dancing with me in such a small space, dame Shin, I see no reason to refuse! 『Blue Hurricane』!”

His sword sparkled with a blue light. As if gathering the stormy blue wind around it… However, Nara didn’t react at all. The more her smile widened, the more Lark’s brow furrowed.

“Oh my, what to do.

‘An offering for God’—do you think they’d use magic or skills?”

“Madness. Is it really what I think it is?”

“I think Lark-ssi is quite impressive. Fast to catch on—I’d say you’d rank in my top 10. Well then… shall we go?”

Nara nodded her head towards Lark in a modest bow. Lark couldn’t even think to pull out an emergency teleport scroll from his bag. Because he had perfectly understood what skill Nara had used. Her body shot forward like a cascade. 『Legendary Alter Cabare』 Description: A shrine for ancient gods existing before the supreme god Ahlo, alter. Offerings made to the shrine were meant to endlessly dance, hoping the ancient gods would descend and ‘consume’ them. The capricious ancient gods detested offerings using tools or mana powers. So, the priests serving these gods took special measures to ensure the offerings performed their duties faithfully. Effect: Absolute skill ban within casting range. If there is no movement within the range for more than 2 seconds, 5% of the total health is damaged. Mana: 2,000 Duration: 5 minutes Cooldown: 48 hours Ka-aaaang—–! “This is too much, isn’t it?”

Lark stumbled backward, barely managing to block Nara’s sword, but soon his body was forced to stop. The cyan dome not only banned skills within its range but also acted as a barrier from which movements could not escape.

“What’s too much? ‘Gear dependency’ is also a skill, as someone once said?!”

“Damn it!”


Lark swung his sword vigorously. The afterimage of his sword no longer bore the 『Rainbow』. Nara watched the swinging sword till the end, stepping back just two steps. Crash—!

With a heavy thud, her expression momentarily stiffened.

“Ha-ha! Seems like you can’t avoid it either, no matter how much you try to act superior? Since Miss Shin can’t use her skills, it’s expected, I guess-”

“Touche nong balrable! It means an attack is nullified.”

Shin Nara’s complexion didn’t change in the slightest. She could dodge it if she wanted to. In other words, intercepting Lark’s blade with the ‘guard’ of her sword was a planned move. Without using a shield, it was crucial for her to perfectly understand Lark’s attack power and any additional effects his sword possessed.

“And the cross-guard is there originally for defense, you know. Seems like you need to study more, Lark-ssi?”

Observing her refreshed expression made Lark realize. Shin Nara intentionally showed an opening to gauge his skills.

“Damn. She deliberately showed a vulnerability, is she that strong? If she can block my skills… At the lowest, that’s a legendary tier shoe. Should I break it? I could if I make up my mind. But the moment I decipher this skill…”

Lark held his sword aloft and looked at Shin Nara. As Shin Nara said, Lark was exceptionally insightful and perceptive. His decision not to recklessly attack further and instead to conceal his remaining capabilities was a reasonable action. However, this was ‘Alter Cabaret’. Soon, Lark was trembling all over and had to scream.

“Aaaargh-!”

For Lark, not knowing the specifics of a legendary item’s legendary skill because it was his first time seeing it was natural.

“Oops, didn’t I mention? Staying still for more than 2 seconds will get you in trouble…”

Shin Nara, previously maintaining a fencing stance, spoke with genuine regret. Before Lark could fully recover from the damage, she made her move first. Whoosh! Lark tried to raise his sword in a panic but couldn’t block her thrust, which moved through the air like a snake. *Tension-* Lark clenched his eyes shut. He knew too well that the moment Shin Nara’s blade passed through his neck or forehead, he’d wake up from the Middle Earth connector gasping for air.

“What is-”

Boom! But Lark had to open his eyes due to the sudden pain in his hand.

“… What is this?”

Even though his hand was pierced and bleeding, Lark did not cover it. His gaze was fixed on his sword that had fallen to the ground.

“You’re quick on the uptake, Lark-ssi. Why do you think I did this?”

Shin Nara quickly retrieved her sword. What she wanted was merely to neutralize Lark, showing through her demeanor that she had no further intention to attack.

“I may not know why you did it. But I’m fully aware that the skill cooldown to block my sword’s activation isn’t something as short as one or two hours. A day? Maybe even more?”


“Lies. You know exactly why I acted this way.”

Shin Nara’s smile vanished. This moment was precisely why she had come here. Killing Lark now? That would merely result in a ten-day connection penalty. Even without Lark, the Virtue Knights might continue their 『Subjugation』 against the paleos. After the ten-day penalty, once he reconnects, the 『Subjugation』 pace would only quicken, and by then, it would be impossible for Shin Nara to stop them. Most importantly—Lark, being swift to bring up the cooldown, wouldn’t be caught by Shin Nara’s skill a second time. Shin Nara rummaged through her bag. The duration of this skill was a mere 5 minutes, and with already about 3 minutes elapsed, there was no room to drag out the negotiation.

“Sign it.”

“Pfft. A ‘contract’, seriously? Being too nice can sometimes be a problem. And what if I don’t sign it? Still, I don’t think Dame Shin can kill me-”

Lark was saying, shrugging his shoulders, when Shin Nara had already launched herself at him.

Her sword was aimed right at Lark’s Adam’s apple.

“I am not a regular user, but a member of the Sacred Knights. That’s why I respect you, Lark.”

“In other words, it also means it’s difficult to kill me, a knight of Minis’s Virtuous Knight Order.”

“You’re welcome to try. You know I have nothing to lose, right? I wonder what would happen if you ‘dropped’ your sword?”

Shin Nara laughed cheerfully.

Despite being cornered, Lark’s face, which had maintained its composure, contorted for the first time.

He quickly regained his usual expression, but Shin Nara did not miss it.

“One of the good things about Middle Earth is this: there may be items that can’t be traded, but there are no items that don’t drop upon death. Of course, there might be usage conditions that mean I ultimately can’t use it… But the fact that you, Lark-ssi, could never use that sword again seems like no loss to me.”

It was basic practice for Middle Earth players to stuff their bags with various items to prevent drops.

However, a 0.1% chance is still a chance! The mere possibility of dropping it is enough to unsettle anyone, a natural human psychology that Shin Nara was deftly exploiting.

“This mock battle ‘never happened.’

I’ve written it all in the contract. Officially, there was never a fight between Lark of the Virtuous Knight Order and Shin Nara of the Sacred Knights. You understand what this means, right?”

Above all, she had a history of countless push-and-pulls with members within the Sacred Knights.

“Sign it while you can. Your honor will be preserved.”

Lark burst into laughter at the carrot dangled after the stick.


Every time Shin Nara spoke, his face rapidly changed, finally settling back into calmness.

“Incredible, truly. To think you chose an item rewarded by the papacy just to capture little ol’ me. There was no way I could have been caught. Alright, I’ll sign.”

“Do you promise on the honor of a knight?”

“Pfft! I am of the Virtue Knights, but do you think I hold any honor?”

“Then-”

“I swear on my sword. I will not break the contract.”

Lark signed the contract Shin Nara had extended to him.

Though strictly enforced by Middle Earth, the contract was ‘not absolute’.

It meant if one was willing to face the penalties, unilateral termination was possible!

Shin Nara smiled brightly at Lark’s words about staking his sword and his easy signing of the contract. Whoosh…!

Just then, the glowing barrier disappeared.

“Shoot, if I had held out just one more minute, I wouldn’t have had to sign.”

Lark grumbled as he picked up his sword, but there was no notable regret on his face.

Shin Nara shook her head at him.

“…That’s why I didn’t kill you, Lark-ssi. Really, really, reall~~y bad, but you are unexpectedly fair and just.”

“Are you talking to me?”

“Yes. It’s subtly similar to Leeha-ssi, you know.”

“… Leeha? Me? Similar?”

Lark looked at Shin Nara with incredulity, but she said no more to him.

Instead, she simply addressed the Colosseo Knights who had been watching the duel and conversation with fascination.

If you touch the Black Crane, paleo, I will return, she stated, before disappearing with the use of a crystal.

Even as she vanished and her figure flickered with a soft rainbow light, Lark was still in a daze.

“Uh… me and Leeha… No, but why Leeha again? Why does that guy’s name keep coming up?”

Lark mumbled dazedly as a few members of the Colosseo Knights approached him.

“Sir, ‘Knight of the Rainbow’? So, we will now-”

“Ah! I think I need to leave now. Sorry I couldn’t be of more help, members of the Colosseo. Erm, you probably overheard my conversation with Dame Shin, but speaking of this ‘mock battle’ elsewhere might have consequences… It’s probably best to give up on the Black Crane paleo. Fortunately, dame Shin didn’t mention any other paleo, so maybe you should try your luck elsewhere?”

With the Sacred Knights scattered everywhere at the moment, it wasn’t feasible for the Colosseo Knights to target another paleo. Shin Nara would quickly find them and come slicing in. Lark had foreseen this but had no further advice to offer the unhelpful knights. He quietly teleported to where the Virtue Knights were. There wouldn’t be any issue of the Virtue Knights stepping in to suppress mystical creatures for at least a month.

(To be continued…)
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But why just one month? It seemed the nuance was that it’d be enough to only block the Virtue Knights for a month. Did that mean he was confident in blocking any other knight orders whenever? Or, what was his plan once I started moving again after a month? As Lark recalled a clause from the contract, he thought of someone’s name.

Remembering what the golden carp had said… Leeha.

Did it mean that if Lark goes around with Virtue to acquire “Subjugation” achievement after the contract period, Leeha intended to come and block him then? ‘It feels like she’s saying I have been ‘overlooked’ so far.’

Lark frowned.

“What happened, captain?”

“Retreat. It’s all ruined because of one woman.”

“What, what? What are you talking about?”

Though Pung looked confused at Lark’s words, he had nothing more to say. Shin Nara’s swift movements without any buff skills, the tricks she had prepared, and her thorough immobilization…

“It means I’ve realized that a smart and pretty woman isn’t necessarily a good thing… Well, now that I think about it, she was quite pretty, wasn’t she? Does that guy, Leeha, like her?”

“What?”

Pung’s eyes widened in surprise, and Lark just shrugged, remembering Shin Nara. The top users from the capital defense knight orders of Fibiel and Minis had all been focused on Leeha, who even at that moment, was still pursuing Toon. It had been over 16 hours since he began the pursuit.

※

『Rumble Rumble Rumble!』 “Damn, again? Alright, ease it down.”

『Rumble!』

Swoosh!

Jellypong retracted his arm.

Using Jellypong for fast maneuvers was definitely an advantage for Leeha, but it wasn’t something that could be relied on indefinitely.

“Damn it, how am I supposed to manage in such an open terrain!”

Leeha wanted to maintain the distance to Toon as much as possible, but the gap inevitably widened whenever such terrains appeared.


No matter how fast Leeha moved, she couldn’t match Toon’s stride.

“This is why you can’t keep tweaking specs suddenly and continuously.”

If it had been possible to allocate all agility into speed increase anywhere and anytime, Leeha could have easily caught up with Toon, but that was impossible in her current state.

The best she could do now was to run so that the distance wouldn’t grow further apart.

Leeha ran with all her might, observing Toon’s disproportionate physique from a distance.

“His arm hasn’t regenerated. My attack definitely hit.”

How was Toon’s body structured?

Leeha remembered the last battle near the 『Divine Staff』.

“Even when I blew a hole in his eye socket area, he didn’t flinch, but he screamed when his arm froze over.”

What was the difference between the two attacks? The difference between the hit to the head near the source of evil and the arm hit with the 『Divine Staff』?

“Thinking his arm is a weakness seems too simplistic…”

Toon, who effortlessly swept away users with his arm like a whip in every attack, wouldn’t have used it so freely if it were a weakness. Toon had also stood firm against the joint attack from Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Pei Wu.

“But when Ram Hwajung froze it and I struck, there was a reaction. Kijung did manage to weaken him… but I don’t fully understand what ‘weakening’ means in this context. Was it just reducing HP? Or decreasing defense? Maybe both?

“Kijung, when you used 『Sacrifice』 on Toon, you said you weakened him, right?

Kijung: Everyone, follow me! Paladins, don’t worry about that and start from this side- Oh, what’s this, a trick? Huh? Leeha hyung?

-…~ Busy, huh?

Kijung: Ah, right now a giant rhino is charging at us, trying to stop it. What’s up? Need something?

Leeha: You make it sound easy.

Kijung: Just one rhino or so, yeah. A bit of exercise after a meal. Leeha felt power draining from his ankles. The giant monsters that swarmed during the wave had been strong enough to cause significant damage, but now, the idea that one or two of such giant monsters wouldn’t even make Kijung tense was astonishing.

Leeha: Cough, it’s not about that…


Leeha asked Kijung.

What are the conditions for activating 『Sacrifice』, and when used on an opponent, what kind of and scale of damage could it inflict? Kijung momentarily closed his mouth. However, it wasn’t because he was reluctant to talk to Leeha. It was because he needed to concentrate on dealing with a hoard of monsters.

Shin Nara had informed Lark about the penalties of the Alter Cabaret to a certain extent, confident that he would never be caught by that skill again. Except for such special cases, the information on the skills they possessed was virtually top secret among the Middle Earth players.

But the relationship between Kijung and Leeha was ‘such a special case’ or even more. It wasn’t just because Leeha was the one who had secured the sword with 『Sacrifice』 for Kijung.

It was due to Kijung’s pure admiration for Leeha. It was beyond mere friendship or astonishment; it was the fruition of pure respect.

Leeha: Hmm, that’s interesting. Even though the skill’s name is ‘Self-Sacrifice’, it seems there are still opportunities?”

Kijung: Well, that’s about right. Although my health drops to 1 after using the skill… the enemy’s defense drops drastically by 80, so there’s a chance of surviving if the final attack succeeds.”

Leeha: It wouldn’t have worked on Toon, though.”

Kijung: Do you really have to say that? Even if I use my all, it wouldn’t weaken a monster like Toon significantly.”

During the skill activation, neither the caster nor the target is allowed any movement—an absolute skill. The condition targets all of the caster’s 10, drastically reducing the target’s 140 along with both physical and magical defenses.

Leeha: Even with you worrying this much, Kijung is top-level in Middle Earth. Combining that with the forfeited defenses and Ram Hwajung’s freezing… a sweet deal.”

Ram Hwajung’s freezing wasn’t just about icing over. It restricted movement and seized control of the body, providing defense only in the thickness of the ice but plundering all other special defenses within the body.

Leeha remembered Kidd mentioning something similar when he fought alongside Ram Hwajung against a golem, a mad alchemist’s creation.

‘Kidd said the same when he killed the golem made by the mad alchemist. Meaning, when I broke Toon’s arm at that time, it was under double defense reduction.’

Breaking that arm required three bullets. Then what approach should one take under normal circumstances? Leeha pondered.

‘Definitely pierced its skin. In contrast to dragons which nullify attacks with their ‘scales’, Toon’s skin was clearly breached.’

Leeha had seen the blood flowing unmistakably.

“But there was no damage… because of the thick flesh inside—no, the muscles?

“Muscles… If the bullets won’t do, maybe it’s like a wall…”

On the matter of monsters, dragon scales were the prime example of a natural defense.


Trolls? Rather than defense, trolls substitute it with regenerative abilities.

Ogres replace it with the thickness of their hide. Orcs, Kobolds, Goblins, and such lack these natural defenses, hence they resort to makeshift armor. Then what about Toon?

“Of course, its hide would be tough! Its muscles incredibly dense and springy! But still! My attack managed to penetrate through that!”

If Leeha’s bullets couldn’t make it further, then there was only one structure left.

“Dragon bone tough indeed…”

Literally, the toughness and defense of the bones couldn’t even be compared with regular monsters.

“Probably so. To maintain such a 440m body mass, its bones aren’t ordinary to protect the organs rolling inside—Jellypong!”

『”Myongmyong!”』

Thinking of Toon, Leeha instructed Jellypong to move in a terrain where woods and forests emerged.

“That uneasy premonition I faintly felt was exactly that.”

Swooosh–

Feeling the breeze brushing his cheeks, Leeha realized the nature of the ominous premonition he had been harboring since encountering Toon.

Why was it inevitable to face 69 losses out of 69 simulations? Because he faintly anticipated that regular shooting would be ineffective against it.

“If that’s the source of its defense… then it must be pained in the bones for its 10 to truly decrease. Before that, shooting several times wouldn’t make a significant impact.”

Then where would be the most efficient place to target?

As Jellypong moved, Leeha contemplated Toon’s attack patterns.

If there was anything Toon excelled at, it was its sweeping attack first and foremost. Pulling back its arms and then slashing forward in a whip-like motion, sweeping everything in front of it!

“And…? What else is there? A body slam?”

Among Toon’s attack patterns, what could Leeha possibly exploit? It surely wouldn’t expose its weakness in everyday situations.

For a boss-level creature like Toon, that’s a given. A weakness would only be exposed, very briefly and slightly, during some kind of action. No matter how perfect the surrounding terrain might be, even if one were to precisely embed bullets into both eyes of Toon, there’s no guarantee that it would kill him. In other words, what I must aim for is – ah, that very brief, momentarily exposed gap.

It was still an undiscovered “instant kill point” of Toon.

Kijung: We’ve finally taken down a whole group. Ah,-hyung! Will that thing from earlier be of any help?

Leeha: Yeah, mhm. It should be.

Kijung: Since I taught you 『Sacrifice』, it’s your turn to help me out.

Leeha: What is it? I’ve said before, I can’t go there right now—

Kijung: You don’t need to come. Just lend me a hand.

Leeha: A hand?

Kijung: Yeah. Ask Rubini to get in touch with me.

Leeha slightly tilted his head. Rubini was a user he hadn’t seen in ages.

Of course, it was unlikely that she, known by her nickname Doctor Doom, was idly passing time, but it was true that there had been few opportunities to encounter her.

“All of a sudden Rubini? The Holy Knight profession quest and Rubini… Ah!?”

Kijung: Did you put some thought into it?! Wow, you got it in one. Tell me quickly why that is.

If they use Rubini’s map? It would be like a fishing trawler with a radar, finding schools of fish wandering the ocean and lifting them aboard. Kijung’s force, led by him, would be able to continuously subdue groups of monsters that Rubini finds.

Compared to scouring with our eyes and effortfully gathering information from users passing by, the efficiency is expected to improve by more than a hundredfold.

Knowing this, there was no reason for Leeha to hesitate.

Leeha: Okay! She’s not logged in right now, but as soon as she is, I’ll talk to her and get her to contact you.

Kijung: Cooool~! I need to sleep now. Yaaawn… Take care, then, hyung.

Hearing Leeha’s assurance, Kijung, perhaps relieved, gave a big yawn.

The moment Kijung lazily yawned, something sparked in Leeha’s mind.

Leeha: Kijung!

Kijung: Aiiee, you scared me! Why scream like that? You woke me up!

Leeha: Right, right. The! Perfect plan!

Kijung: What, what are you talking about? Why are you being scary all of a sudden?

Leeha: You’ll hear some good news soon, just wait for it!

Kijung: Eh? Are you getting married? Ah, right, Bobae said to take care of Shin Nara—

Ignoring Kijung’s nonsensical blabber, Leeha planned his strategy.

“It’s clear. This is definitely going to work. The problem is managing everything perfectly to create such a situation.

“Jellypong, let’s get ahead a bit. We need to check if there’s an appropriate terrain.”

『Myongmyong!』

Swooosh, swooosh, swooosh—!

Toon, unaware he was being followed, wouldn’t suddenly speed up.

Leeha urged Jellypong, moving ahead to scout Toon’s path. It wasn’t an easy task.

Even if something came to mind, it’s not as if the perfect place and conditions would be set like a table. It’s not about following Toon, but moving ahead of him. That alone increased the risk.

In the meantime, Leeha had to select a battlefield where he could execute his strategy without Toon noticing his movements. Moreover, he had to consider Toon’s possible routes as Toon wouldn’t move in a straight line forever. Paying attention to all these things and proceeding with the task was certainly not a simple job for Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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As night fell and Toon rested, once more, he seized the opportunity to scout ahead alone under the guise of the dark.

“The terrain over there… If it’s there—Jellypong!”

『Myong myong!』

To the left was a typical forest path, while to the right, the terrain rose so steeply it resembled a cliff, high enough that it seemed to tower over the surroundings. With such a steep incline, it would be impossible for average users to climb from left to right without the aid of skills or items. The height, moreover, was over 30 meters.

“Get to the top of that cliff, before Toon gets here. Hurry!”

The moment he saw the terrain, simulations started running through Leeha’s mind again.

‘%…70 battles, 69 losses, and finally… 1 victory.’

It had taken exactly a thousand days of pursuing Toon for Leeha to finally secure a virtual victory.

Nothing else was worth looking at now.

Daylight was breaking, which meant Toon would soon be on the move, and it wouldn’t take him more than 40 minutes to reach this spot.

“Let’s get ready.”

『Myong.』

Leeha attached a magazine to his Black Bass.

The fight to turn his one simulation victory into a real one was about to begin.

Leeha took a deep breath as he faced forward.

“Good. There’s nothing obstructing the view.”

Jellypong swiftly lifted Leeha to the top of the cliff with its spider-like legs. Compared to the forest on the left, the right side of the cliff lacked sufficient cover. Though there were sparse weeds, they were not dense enough to conceal a body, and the rocks, though present, were hardly significant in size.

Leeha positioned himself between the largest rock and some weeds, laying prone and ready to snipe. He quickly set up his bipod, making sure his rifle was as stable as possible on the uneven terrain, then pulled the bolt.

A heavy sensation filled Leeha’s fingertips.


The magazine he had loaded was a pitch-black, colorless one, not subsonic but filled with regular bullets. 『Myong, myong…』

“Are you also feeling uneasy?”

It was a distinctly different feeling from the usual.

“Me too. But what can we do?”

Leeha chuckled ruefully as he shifted his gaze to the scope. What was it again? The die has been cast. What’s done is done, and cannot be undone. Leeha knew better than anyone that it’s pointless to dwell on anxieties you can’t change.

‘The expected route for Toon to pass is definitely through the middle of that forest path. From here, it’s about 1.76 meters, close enough.’

Leeha ran the simulation through his mind once more. How long would it take for a monster of size 440m, with such long strides, to cover the distance here from 1,710 meters?

A creature with a stride of at least 170 meters. But that’s when walking normally. Considering its sprint speed…

‘It’s going to be enormous. It’ll cover more ground than its size with each step. That means, at least 53 meters? Then, taking three, four, no… even five steps a second into account, Toon could cover a distance of about 265 meters in just one second. Averaging between four and five steps, that means it could move an average of 240 meters per second.’

Leeha felt dizzy at the thought. 1.7 km is a distance where those with poor eyesight may not even make out what’s there. Yet, for Toon, it’s a distance that can be closed in merely 8 seconds.

“8 seconds… heh, incredible.”

Until now, various obstacles, escort personnel around Leeha, and more than targeting Leeha himself, important objects like the 『Divine Staff』 made sprinting movements unfeasible.

But now?

Maybe a brief evasive maneuver could buy an extra 2 seconds. But that’s still just 10 seconds. Standing still, one might manage to land a few shots…”

Toon will come running at full speed, also maneuvering left and right.

If he were to run straight, it’d make sense to aim directly at Toon’s belly from the start. Even as the distance closes, continuous firing without readjusting the aim would suffice.

After all, any deviation would be in vertical alignment, so aiming at Toon’s belly would do just fine. However, it’s a different story if the target moves left and right, especially one that can close a distance of 265 meters per second. Swift readjustment of the aim will be essential.

Click-click-click.

Of course, having calculated even that in the simulation, Leeha was already swiftly turning the dial on top of the scope.

“Like this… Whew, there’s no one watching, so I don’t have to be nervous, but it’s like going up on stage, right?”


『Myong?』

“Right, I’ve never actually been on a stage before. I definitely couldn’t be a celebrity. Getting this nervous over such a thing.”

Even as Jellypong’s eyes wandered, Leeha kept talking.

In the most tense and dangerous moments, jokes are needed more than ever!

Like Kijung, with whom he shares a cousinly bond, Leeha was also using humor to ease the tension.”

Okay, okay. I’ve got the terrain around us all figured out. We can do this.”

Leeha took another deep breath.

Just as Leeha swallowed, a distant rumble came from afar.

“Like hell we can…”

Koooung- Koooung- Kooouuung…!

“We have to.”

Without even needing to look, Leeha knew it was Toon approaching.

Leeha didn’t fiddle with the scope anymore.

The zeroing was already set at 1.700. What was left was just to wait until Toon crossed into the perfect straight line alignment with Leeha.

It wouldn’t take too long.

Watching the dust kicked up by Toon’s feet and his head bobbing, Leeha checked his pacing.

‘It wasn’t much different from my calculation. Should I be thanking him or what?’

Leeha let his smile fade away.

Hooooo…

“Shall we?”


『Mong!』

Hearing the small cry of Jellypong, Leeha briefly closed his eyes, then opened them.

Toon filled Leeha’s view from within the scope.

Leeha slowly exhaled. Haaaaa… Leeha pulled the trigger.

Tuooooo—–!!

Koooung- Koooung- Koooung- Koooung- Koooung- Thump!

The rhythm of Toon walking was-broke. Leeha didn’t plan to watch his target stagger for long. He pulled the trigger again.

『Mong!』

But before the second bullet could reach, Toon had already spotted who was attacking him and from where. Instinctively, he ducked, evading it. Leeha felt a chill run down his spine as he made eye contact with Toon through the scope. However, there was no longer any fear. After all, everything was still within Leeha’s expectation.

“Eye for an eye, you bastard.”

Tuooooo——-!!

The third bullet was fired.

『Aaaargh! This damn thing, lying in ambush here! How did he anticipate my path!』 “Doesn’t matter if I can’t hear whatever you’re spewing! Just shut your trap!”

—

Leeha pulled the trigger again. The distance was still more than 1.7km!

Toon’s voice wasn’t audible.

Pulling the bolt, Leeha slightly adjusted the zeroing and fired again!

Once more, then again!

『You can’t kill me with such attacks, you arrogant bastard!』

Leeha was watching, clearly. With each shot landing, he saw Toon’s skin explode and blood stream out.

Although the first shot had accurately taken out the crown of his head, shattered his collarbone, shattered his shoulder, and even punched a complete hole in his chest, Toon didn’t falter.

Except for the first direct vertical shot, it effectively meant Leeha was unable to stop Toon’s charge.

“Expected, but this is too much!”

Faster than his panic was Leeha’s hand movements.

“The stopping power this bullet has should be…”

Another shot, and yet another!

Leeha wished to gouge deeper into the previous wounds, but accurately aiming at the swiftly moving Toon, disproportionate to his size, was impossible.

Still, Leeha targeted every possible spot on Toon’s body.

One bullet hit the thigh, another the shin, quickly cocking the bolt and spilling yet another bullet towards Toon’s armpit. And another step was aimed at the elbow of a deformed arm.

Leeha had tried to target what seemed like weak points on a human body, yet none of his hits were effective. Despite the wounds opening and blood seeping out, and even sometimes what seemed like white bone appeared briefly within Leeha’s scope, Toon never backed down.

“That white thing must definitely be a bone… Even though flesh has been gouged out to reveal bone, not a single scream of pain-”

Roar!

There was no sight of Toon screaming in pain. There were small groans and the sounds of disrupted breathing, but that was hardly good news. No, it was rather bad news. It meant they had gotten close enough for such small sounds to be heard. 『”Have the others not shown themselves, or did you really come to find me alone! Kahaha!”』

Toon’s sudden laughter and Leeha’s gunfire stirred up the quiet eastern New Continent.

Whizz!

Birds flew up, and wild animals scattered with cries, but Leeha himself was so focused he couldn’t even perform the evasive maneuvers he had initially intended.

The battle, which started at 1.76m, had now closed in to 500m. By Toon’s stride and speed, he would arrive in just over 2 seconds.

“This is really a troublesome bastard.”

Leeha quickly rummaged through his bag while lying down.

Leeha was at a height of 30m above the ground, a very appropriate distance to meet Toon’s 44m tall gaze and converse.

In other words, it was the perfect height to aim for his eyes.

“This should work?! If not, what am I even living for!”

Among the items he pulled out was an emergency bomb!

Lighting the fuse of the special Bottleneck bomb and aiming his sights at Toon’s eye, Leeha threw it.

『Funny guy! This time I will devour you-』

Boom!

With the explosion, a giant flame erupted.

Toon, who had been approaching step by step, could not carelessly advance this time.

A vast flame had exploded in front. But it wasn’t just because of the flame.

『Khaaaat-! Damn you!』 As if the explosion was a mere deception, one bullet that flew through the firestorm pierced Toon’s pupil. Even with eyes larger than those of an average human, Toon’s face was utterly ripped open, and a storm of blood gushed forth.

Even then, Leeha saw it.

The great rage being directed at him by Toon!

Without even shielding his bleeding eyes, Toon merely squinted and continued advancing towards Leeha.

A monster that didn’t step back even after being attacked in the face and losing the sight in one eye.

It wasn’t merely because he was strong or his immense stature.

Compatibility! The grudge formed between Leeha and Toon during the game had made Toon determinedly combative.

『Where are you, you cur! Do you think you can escape and live in a place where spatial movement is impossible!』

Toon bellowed.

His voice, filled with pain and evil, reverberated loudly above the cliff.

Including an eye shot, a total of eleven attacks.

Excluding one missed shot, ten bullets had pierced various parts of his body in addition to the flames from the bomb, yet Toon did not flinch at all.

“The first shot with Shadow Hitman applied was a whopping 87,000, and if we consider the rest of the attacks at 43,000, that totals up to 520,000! Show some sign of damage! If it’s as Leeha expected, he can’t be completely unharmed.

The problem is, it’s not about tearing flesh or skin, but the need to shake his bones…

Yet, Toon was already in front of Leeha.

『Do you think such deception can free you from me!』 Toon, with his remaining arm, swung swiftly, clearing the gunpowder smoke before striking the ground Leeha was lying on.

『I will not kill you off easily! I shall bring your well-pounded flesh to the Count!』

Toon, as he declared, had no intention of killing Leeha through blows or crushing.

It was an effort intended to grasp. Toon’s effort to inflict the most severe pain hadn’t faltered.

“Ah! Go away, leave!”

From within the smoke not yet fully cleared, Leeha’s scream could be heard. Thump…!

And immediately after, the sensation of something soft filling his palm!

『Kaha! Caught, you are caught, you scoundrel!』

Though one eye could not see properly,

Toon’s sense of touch in his fingertips was not dulled. He could accurately determine what he had caught. On the cliff’s edge, the thing grasped firmly in Toon’s hand was unmistakably Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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Toon, with his remaining eye, looked down at Leeha, who was caught in his grasp.

A twisted, ugly carcass of flesh! The insignificance of a human was similar to that of a human squashing a mosquito that had been tormenting them all night.

『”Really… You really tried to kill me all by yourself. That alone, your courage, the damn courage that even if cursed, stewed, and ground wouldn’t be satisfying, I commend you for it!”』

To Toon, the attempts of Leeha to escape his grip, barely able to even groan properly, appeared no more significant than a worthless creature.

『”But, that’s until today! You shall never appear before me again!”』 Toon exclaimed triumphantly. Whether due to the rapid blood flow every time he grew furious or not, blood seeped out from various orifices in his body, but he paid no attention to these trifles. The joy of having captured Leeha, and the possibility of being acknowledged by Bluebeard once again, was plainly written on Toon’s face.

『Myong?』

『”Do you wish to escape, you insignificant creature? Without paying the price for your arrogance, you dared to challenge me, the loyal second servant of the Count, the dinosaur Toon!”』

With each struggle from Leeha in his grip, Toon’s expression brightened, as if pondering the best way to kill Leeha to spread his reputation. And like a well-laid feast on a table, he felt no further regret standing by the edge of a cliff at a convenient height. 『”First, an arm. For my arm that you’ve taken away, I shall start by tearing off your right arm.”』

Toon’s voice resonated deeply.

Leeha’s expression darkened further in Toon’s grip.

Fortunately for Leeha, Toon only had one arm. Excluding the one gripping Leeha, there was no other hand to tear away Leeha’s ‘right arm’.

Unfortunately, however, Toon’s teeth were far sharper and more ferocious than his arm.

『”Are you afraid of my teeth?”』

As Toon finally attempted to lift the arm that was resting against the cliff, Leeha gazed back at him intently. The desperation that had been present only moments before was now absent from Leeha’s face.

『”You, you fiend-“』

He clearly saw Leeha. Leeha’s mouth did not move. Yet, Toon distinctly heard Leeha’s soft voice.

『Hallucination: Bahamut』.”

A massive burst of light that devoured all color and shape erupted before Toon’s eyes.

『”You wretched creatureeeeeee! You dare try to escape with such a cheap trick!”』 Toon shut his eyes tightly and turned his head away.


Even through his closed eyelids, the overwhelming light forced him to take several steps back. Yet in all this, Toon never loosened his grip. It didn’t matter what skill Leeha was using; such details were irrelevant to him.

There might be a tinge of regret for Toon, unable to torment Leeha further, but all he needed to do was ‘squeeze a bit tighter’ before Leeha could perform any tricks.

『”Even the softest fruit would maintain its shape better than you!”』

“Is that so?”

『”With what confidence do you…”』 Along with Leeha’s voice, Toon opened his eyes.

Flutter—Flutter—!

『”Really, let’s see if that will be the case. You lowly spawn of Le, Toon』 Facing Toon, the right hand man of Bluebeard and a major monster commander of the Demon King’s Army, was the Platinum Dragon.

Toon’s remaining eye widened at the appearance of the Platinum Dragon, an entity Toon couldn’t easily overlook.

『”A dragon… No, bigger than a fly – No! That can’t be!”』

『”Why can’t it be? Leeha is my family. Are you saying I cannot come out to protect my own family?”』

Basically, Bahamut’s stature was no less than Toon’s.

Moreover, the majesty emanating from its appearance.

Though Toon was a monster of the greatest caliber, it couldn’t compare to the metal dragon, the leader pridefully flaunting its wings from above.

『”This is your last chance. If you don’t let go immediately, I’m happy to entertain you along with that guy.”』

『”How dare you treat the Count such… Ohhhh! Even if you are an actual dragon, you can’t show up here! Even if Leeha had a secret weapon, it wouldn’t come out at such a late stage!”』

-…

Toon, gripping tightly, berated Bahamut.

The expression on the Leeha held in his grip became even more distorted.

Toon was not a dumb monster. The name, the left arm of Bluebeard, wasn’t just because of his size. He was keenly aware of what the appearance of the platinum dragon signified at this moment. 『Do you think to mock me for my inability to use magic! But this I can do too!』 Toon stared straight at Bahamut.

The location from which Bahamut materialized was slightly to the right from everyone else’s perspective, but from Toon’s standpoint, it was to the left.


Turning his head in that direction, Toon briefly leaned his neck back.

Though Toon was unable to use any other magic, the ‘skill’ he had once demonstrated at the source of evil was unique. His roar that sent the gathered mana scattering had an effect similar to a ‘wide-area dispel’!

Extending his neck as far as he could, Toon roared.

『”Ah- Aaah Aaah—!!”』 The roar’s vibration was so intense that it seemed visible, something the illusionary state of Bahamut could not withstand. 『”You will- undoubtedly- regret this…!”』

With these last words, Bahamut’s form slowly started to crumble. Toon, having already deduced Bahamut was an illusion for “not being able to materialize here”, was thus able to decisively counter the 『Hallucination』. After a victorious roar, Bahamut’s form completely vanished, and Toon wore a triumphant smile.

“Begone, false dragon… Hm?”

And then, he felt an ominous sensation.

There was a foreign object in his mouth. The confusion from not being able to move his tongue at will.

Above all, the weight.

“Is it over?”

『”Hmm? This voice is… Leeha?”』

“No, of course, it’s me. Who else would it be? What are you saying as if it’s obvious?”

『”How can you- inside my mouth- no, then what I was holding-“』

Toon looked at his hand. He was sure he hadn’t relaxed his grip.

But where had Leeha, who had been in his grasp, gone?

『Myongmyong?』

『”You, what are you!”』

Toon looked at the translucent slime slowly creeping out of his hand.

What was going on?

What was this thing emerging from his hand?


Why was Leeha talking inside his mouth?

He had definitely closed his mouth, so why wasn’t the sharpness of his teeth slicing through the creature’s body?

However, Toon didn’t find out the answer.

“This is really it, you damned dinosaur.”

Leeha yelled as loud as he could, targeting the dinosaur’s Adam’s apple from within Toon’s mouth.

『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”

***

When Leeha was 500 meters away from Toon, what he pulled out of his bag wasn’t just a bomb.

No sooner had he lit the fuse, Leeha swiftly ‘used’ another item, shouting,

“Jellypong! Detach! 『Combat Mode: Strength Type』!”

『Myongmyong!』

As soon as Jellypong was released, Leeha passed an item to it.

The item, seemingly ridiculous at a glance, was indeed the first variable that could vastly affect the outcome as proven in Leeha’s simulations.

『Spy Hero Kojobu’s Glasses』

Description: During the First Human-Demon War, these glasses belonged to a spy, codenamed 『Kojobu』, who infiltrated the demonic army. With nothing but these ordinary glasses, he breached the impenetrable security of five demonic divisions and acquired crucial information that led to victory in the war. After the hero Kojobu’s death, in honor of his memory, his glasses were fitted with a model of his nose. Effect: Upon first wear by the target, and then by the user, transformation into the target’s appearance is possible. Duration: Until a third party suspects the disguised.

So, if these glasses are first worn by Leeha and then put on Jellypong?

“Jellypong, wear it quickly!”

“Mong!”Leeha first threw a bomb.

The aftermath that burst with flames, and even the pungent and thick smell of gunpowder! Leeha’s use of the bomb was not merely to blind. But would Toon be fooled by that?

Ssssssss

“Should be enough for bait, right? If this catches him, it’s all over!”

Leeha could not be certain. If the bomb had no effect, especially if both of Toon’s eyes were healthy, there was a possibility he would recognize 『Jellypong transformed into Leeha’s appearance』.

Therefore, Leeha had to aim. At Toon’s head, barely visible through the smoke, precisely at the eyes located there!

Piercing through——!

“Arghhh! You cursed bastard!”

Along with Toon’s scream, Leeha quickly got up and rolled to the side.

Dodging Toon’s enormous hand coming through the gunpowder smoke, the skill he used was, of course, 『Camouflage』.

“Please, please, fall for it, Jellypong!”

And Leeha saw it. Toon’s arm, gripping ‘Jellypong transformed into his appearance’.

“The regrettable thing is, even if he wears glasses, he can’t mimic the voice! Damn Kojobu-nim, if only he could have made it capable of voice imitation!”

With the smoke not yet cleared, all Leeha could do was put on the performance of his life. Fortunately, making noise didn’t strip the skill of 『Camouflage』.

“Aaahhh! Go away, go away!”

Was it completely mistaken for Leeha? Toon’s “search” ended there. If Jellypong wasn’t grabbed first.

Toon’s arm would have touched Leeha using 『Camouflage』, and then everything would have been in vain.

In the end, Toon essentially captured ‘Jellypong transformed into Leeha’. And Leeha, completely concealing his appearance, was looking at this scenario.

Needing to rescue Jellypong while waiting for Toon to completely expose his weakness.

“It was a hint from Kijung, there definitely is a weakness. That is-”

Inside Toon’s mouth.

That was the weakness Leeha was aiming for. Surely the exterior skeleton would be hard. But if you get inside the mouth?

You can directly aim for the brain!

“Just open your mouth, just open it!

However, Toon did not easily open his mouth.

Perhaps due to the pride of having captured Leeha, he just babbled on, and the opportunity did not come easily.

Eventually, Leeha had no choice but to choose. He couldn’t simply take Jellypong and make him bite inside his mouth. Ultimately, Leeha had to make another choice.

『Hallucination: Bahamut』 The moment Bahamut was created with an explosive light, camouflage had already been stripped off.

Leeha lay flat.

Everything Bahamut says was

“Under Leeha’s control.”

To extract Toon’s mind as much as possible while getting him to open his mouth?

He had no choice but to keep talking as if something tremendous was happening.

No, for Leeha’s own safety as well!

If Toon even momentarily turned his head, Leeha who had lost his camouflage would be exposed!

“He’s fallen for it. He’ll definitely use it, wide-Range Dispel! I saw it at the fortress, then he’ll have no choice but to open his mouth!”

Leeha quietly rifled through his bag. What he took out were two items, a painted magazine and a silencer.

After removing the combined magazine, Leeha quickly attached the two items to the Black Bass.

At that moment, having ended the chat with Bahamut, Toon used Dispel and Leeha quietly shouted.

『Ghost in the Shell』.”

A skill obtained by completing the fifth quest of Black Bass, Ghost in the Shell was activated with a poof sound.

The possibility of Toon hearing that sound amidst his roaring was 0%.

『Ghost in the Shell』

Description: There’s no river that the tyrant Bass cannot inhabit. The tyrant who makes all rivers his dwelling! The fact that the user can encapsulate their flesh and soul within a projectile is proof of having reached the first step of perfectly utilizing Black Bass.

Effect: Moves to the first bullet’s landing point after casting (no distance limit, no spatial movement limit)

Mana: 1,500

Cooldown: 3 hours

Leeha’s body was instantly transported inside Toon’s mouth. At that moment, Leeha could sense victory.

(To be continued.)
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“Enough! So this is why you couldn’t clear the fifth quest!”

At the stronghold of evil, elizabeth immediately recognized Leeha’s predicament! The reward skill for Black Bass’s fifth quest was essentially an ‘escape skill’. A last resort survival skill that allowed one to move their body regardless of spatial locks. However, it could only be used within the maximum range of Black Bass and didn’t allow for teleporting to coordinates or stored locations in a crystal ball. Nonetheless, it was more than enough to escape from the range of ordinary attacks!

Thus, when Elizabeth approached and Leeha was in a dire situation yet couldn’t escape, elizabeth realized it at that moment. Leeha hadn’t learned the fifth skill.

“Cheh! If you were going to teach me, you could have been nicer about it!” grumbled Leeha, pulling himself together.

Once teleported, Leeha had only one task.

“Urgh, damnable dinosaur, let’s see if you can withstand this.

『Platinum Shield』. If Toon closes its mouth now, I’m dead!”

From Toon’s mouth roof, Leeha began by using his protective skills. 『Bah, begone, false dragon… Huh?』

“What!?”

Leeha narrowly managed to stabilize himself atop the speaking Toon. Throughout the ordeal, Toon’s gums and rough skin kept harassing Leeha, but he paid it no mind. With the Platinum Shield in place, he wouldn’t die in one hit. To break it, a consistent level of high damage would be required.

It was for this reason that Leeha was able to boldly grab onto Toon’s fangs to support his own body.

“Are you done?”

『Hmm? Th-this voice, is it Leeha?』

Leeha barely held back his burst of laughter.

“No, who else would it be? What kind of question is that?”

And at that moment, the duration of 『Spy Hero Kojobu’s Glasses』 ended. The moment Toon, an outsider, doubted the identity of the target, meaning Jellypong wasn’t Leeha, Jellypong returned to its original state.

“Confused?”

『”You, what are you!”』

Leeha had made Jellypong into a strength type for this very reason. In case Toon, consumed by rage, attacked towards Jellypong, it needed to have a form with high defense and stamina to withstand as long as possible.


Toon’s thought process momentarily paused, but that moment lasted less than 0.5 seconds.

“It’s over, you damned dinosaur.”

But it was enough. Leeha’s multi-warhead shot didn’t require casting.

– !! From the mouth of the dinosaur, thirty-six bullets were fired. There was nothing left to block the attack. The bullets, fired at close range, were enough to completely shatter the dinosaur’s hard bones. They tore through the throat and the roof of the mouth, exiting from the back of Toon’s head.

The giant dinosaur’s body began to turn into light.

“Je, Jellypong!”

“Protection!”

Jellypong zipped—! and clung to Leeha’s body. Like a bulletproof vest, it enveloped Leeha’s entire body, absorbing all the physical shock damage as Toon collapsed. Koooooong……! As Toon’s massive body fell, causing the earth to tremble, what caught the eye was the endless white radiance emanating from Leeha’s body and the system notification window. 『You have leveled up.』 『You have leveled up.』 『You have leveled up.』 『You have obtained the “Bluebeard’s Great Ire” achievement.』 『You have obtained the “Fall of the Giant Monster Commander” achievement.』 『You have obtained the “End of the Saurus Traitor” achievement.』

『You have obtained the Supreme Rule Over Emotions – Fear Domination achievement.』

“Phew, how many are there exactly? It’s hard even to count.”

Just from the level-up notification that he hadn’t even fully checked yet, Leeha’s mouth was nearly agape, and to make matters even more dizzying, there were even four achievement-related notifications popping up.

Toon truly lived up to his name.

He was the first to make Leeha experience the terror of being targeted, and he was one of the key figures who caused all users the most trouble by bringing them up to the New Continent. His death undoubtedly brought immense value. 『Everyone, please congratulate! The third in command of the Demon King’s Army, Bluebeard’s side, the supreme commander of the giant monster Dinosaur Toon, has been confirmed dead!』

『Slayer: Leeha, musketeer, affiliated with the nation of Fibiel』

The alarm spread simultaneously across Middle Earth.

“Shouuuuld I reconsider what I am about to say?”

“So what happened exactly?”

“When the ‘Count’ wasn’t around, I took a moment to shine, tying up the knights for a while. Heh.”

“I already knew that. No, what deal did you make with Bluebeard? And where on earth did Toon go?”

“Uh, was there really a deal? It was just a chat. And how would I know where Toon has gone-”


Bang!

Unable to watch Prea hemming and hawing any longer, Chiyou slammed the desk forcefully.

The spirit mage with white snow-like hair feigned surprise, but her expression remained amused.

“For heaven’s sake, why get so angry?”

“Prea. We both know everything there is to know, so can we just drop this charade?”

“Uh? What do you mean?”

Prea puffed her cheeks and tilted her head, causing Chiyou to grind her teeth.

‘That bitch… I shouldn’t have welcomed such a person from the start. What on earth did she do to get closer to Bluebeard?’

When Chiyou reconnected after her death, the situation had already changed significantly.

It was Prea who had started to show her capabilities and began receiving Bluebeard’s favor, while Chiyou had been disregarded to the point of not being called upon by Bluebeard at all.

What exactly had she done?

Chiyou wanted to question Prea, but until the bond with the 『Holy Spirit』 was formed, she had to summon and maintain Toon’s illusion to distract the knights, so she never got the chance to press her directly. And today, finally, in their newly moved hideout, Chiyou got the opportunity to confront Prea.

Of course, Prea had not been sincere or complete in her answers to Chiyou’s questions, and her irritating attitude had made Chiyou explode with anger.

“If you keep being so uncooperative, I won’t let it go. You must have made some kind of deal with Bluebeard and, surely, it involves mystical creatures?”

“Well, as you think.”

“But what you want isn’t just Bluebeard’s power. Considering that item you asked me to find…”

“Did you find it?! Did you find that item?!”

Prea suddenly lurched forward, taking Chiyou by surprise.

Just moments ago, she was acting like a master of push-and-pull, and now exposing her true intentions like this?

‘This woman is truly unpredictable… Whether this is an act or not, it’s not funny that I can’t even tell.’


The only person who could procure what Prea so passionately wanted was ultimately Chiyou herself. So, Prea had no choice but to be under Chiyou’s influence again, yet she made it this evident?

When negotiating, it’s basic not to show how desperately you need something, even if you do. Sometimes acting like a master negotiator, other times begging like a child, Prea. Chiyou licked her lips looking at this white wood elf.

“I haven’t found it yet, but I’m nearly done tracking down the materials. It’s said to be an item that doesn’t even exist in Minis.”

“So?”

“I can’t say yet… but it’s related to Kraven, from what I’ve heard from one of Minis’s chromatic dragons. Somewhere deep under the sea…? It’s not somewhere you’d go anyway. Once the materials are more clearly identified, I’ll let you know.”

Chiyou wore the expression of someone who had caught the wind.

Asserting that the reins of the situation were clearly in her hands, Prea nodded compliantly at Chiyou’s authoritative face.

“Understood! I’ll be waiting.”

“So… Toon? What happened to him? I’ve heard Master Kay of Byulcho has been making waves lately, is it related to that?”

Chiyou had already grasped a considerable amount of information.

Fortunately, she didn’t know yet that it involved 『2nd Job Change, Holy Knight』. But from what she had seen of Byulcho and the Paladins, she had sensed that a significant quest was involved.

“Who knows? If it’s related, then it is, if not, then it’s not.”

“If you keep going on like this…”

“No, no! Really, that’s why I’m telling you. Toon has gone back to the village where he was born and raised.”

Prea narrated what she had heard obediently.

Though she couldn’t possibly know about ‘being born and raised’, as long as it involved his homeland, Prea didn’t think she was necessarily lying.

Upon hearing the full story from Prea, Chiyou’s eyes widened remarkably.

“A kingdom of dinosaurs exists?”

“So I’ve heard. I really don’t know any more than that. Bluebeard did instruct Toon to go there, though…”

“You should have said that earlier! Where? Where is such a place?”

“Where did you say it was again~?”

“Prea!”

“, I’m just kidding! You really do get too angry, Chiyou unnie.”

“Unnie?”

Just the act of calling her ‘sis’ was enough to irritate Chiyou.

“Damn it, not only do you pique my curiosity like Leeha, but you also infuriate me just as much. It’s maddening!”

Chiyou, who remained calm under any provocation, couldn’t help but feel a rising anger in front of Prea. Why could she not suppress this surge of anger?

“It’s the Far East… Something about the easternmost part? Beyond that, even I don’t know!”

“Far East…”

Chiyou tried to send a message to Sasuke. Or, at least, she tried to.

Whoosh!

“Oh dear, oh dear. Chiyou! It’s been a while.”

“My lord, the Count, I greet you.”

“Oh, Bluebeard, long time no see!”

Suddenly, le appeared in Chiyou’s new hideout. While Chiyou bowed her head, Prea merely waved her hand in greeting.

It was a truly peculiar scene. Bluebeard too recognized the oddity of their relationship.

“Keke, what a family tree we have here! Well, this is good. I had something to ask of Chiyou anyway.”

Bluebeard pulled up a chair and sat down with a laugh.

Chiyou bit her lip as she listened.

It was as if she was being treated as the most unnecessary person in the room.

A situation she had never encountered back on the Old Continent.

“I’m aware there have been some troublemakers recently.”

“It’s Master Kay. A templar affiliated with the PBY state, quite close to the Papacy.”

“Ah! I knew it! I had a feeling that guy would cause problems.”

“What kind of problems do you mean?”

Despite being cautious, it was natural for them to exchange questions in the absence of other players or any sign of the 1480.

Especially if it was about a second class change, it was something any player from Byulcho would be curious about, and the Chiyou had shared at least the minimum information.

“The key word is ‘Holy Knight'” but as the messenger of Ghibrid, acting as its eyes and ears, the manticore.

That everything it saw and heard was reported back to Ghibrid was unknown even to Chiyou.

“Holy Knight?”

Chiyou pondered the word that had come out of Bluebeard’s mouth.

It was a word she had never heard before.

“You don’t know it yet, huh. Investigate it. Whether the templar causing trouble now becomes a Holy Knight or not, that’s the question. Damn, it has something to do with the representative of God.”

“A Templar becoming a Holy Knight… Understood. I’ll focus all efforts on the Ezwen Church State.”

But Bluebeard had given enough ‘hints’.

If becoming a Holy Knight meant a second class change and had connections with the Pope, it was evident that digging into the Ezwen Church State would shine a light.

“Yes, yes. And as for Prea—Cough!?”

Bluebeard, who was about to speak to Prea, suddenly clutched his head.

“My lord?”

“Oh, what’s wrong?”

Seeing Bluebeard in pain was a first for both Chiyou and Prea, truly surprising them.

However, le could not continue speaking.

“Ah, the pain… Who…?”

“What?”

As Bluebeard muttered in pain with a scrunched-up expression, Chiyou and Prea eventually came to understand why.

『Everyone, please congratulate! The third in command of the Demon King’s Army, Bluebeard’s side, the supreme commander of the giant monster Dinosaur Toon, has been confirmed dead!』

『Slayer: Leeha, musketeer, affiliated with the nation of Fibiel』
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Dead??

Chiyou and Prea exchanged glances.

In the midst of this confusion, they instinctively tried to figure out what had happened from each other.

Of course, they had no idea. It took them quite some time to realize that the killer’s name was Leeha, indicating how panicked they were.

“Let’s see, the level is… Whoa! Twelve? This is insane. This is crazy for leveling up this much. Toon, that was a disastrous gift! Haha.”

A single hunt led to a level up of twelve!

Leeha clicked his tongue as he saw his level now at 245.

It had been hard to level up since reaching the 200s, but he never imagined he’d go up by twelve at this moment.

“What about the achievement – no, checking achievements isn’t the priority now.”

Leeha looked down at the colossal corpse that had fallen to his blade.

The corpse of Toon, turning into light, could disappear at any moment.

What’s important right now?

“Obviously, looting!”

What items could come from Toon’s corpse? Leeha quickly pulled out a wire saw, scissors, and a dagger from his bag.

In the semi-automatic looting system of Middle Earth, one had to make movements towards a corpse to get the items. Leeha started to rush towards Toon’s long arms when suddenly his body staggered.

Kijung: Woah, woah! Eoooong-aaaah?

Shin Nara: Leeha-ssi! What Toon? Where? You caught Toon?

Bobae: It was just Leeha being a ranker. Seeing this, the title ‘Ghoul’ seems rather embarrassing now.

Hyein: Haaa… Just give me the coordinates. I want to see for myself.


Tale: Hehe, there’s a limit to how much you can surprise people… But Leeha is always an exception.

The overlapping voices were clear to Leeha.

The first to contact him were Kijung, Shin Nara, and the rest were members of Byulcho.

“I can’t help but enjoy startling people. Heh.”

Leeha thought, for a moment, if he was possessed by the spirit of Petyr. Just as he was about to reply, he felt the buzzing of a new message.

Hwayeon: Leeha? You caught Toon? The Toon? You should have said something before going after a large monster! I was stockpiling items with extra damage against large monsters for a profit – your hunt cost me!

Hwajung:Oppa. That’s mean. I wanted to go too. So unfair.

Luger: What the hell? Was Toon even shown on the map? I’m sure I didn’t see it! Where is it, exactly!? Kidd: You always manage to surprise people. Seeing the headmaster’s impressed expression makes me want to show you the taste of my 『Silent Shot』.

The second group of respondents were Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, Luger, and Kidd.

While the first group expressed pure admiration, the second group seemed to be concerned with profit and loss.

“Always such shameless people.”

Between Ram Hwayeon’s slyly demanding loot and Kidd’s subtly threatening stance, Ram Hwajung’s and Ram Luger’s overt sulking made the former group seem more cunning.

Blaugrunn: Leeha! Not telling me anything! Can you believe it? The Lord suddenly goes, ‘Huh? Isn’t that Toon right there?’

Do you have any idea how surprised I was!?

Leeha: Eh, eh? Blaugrunn? You must be with Bahamut right now, right?

The third whisperer was Blaugrunn. Hearing his words, Leeha felt unexpectedly flustered.

『Hallucination』 wasn’t just a simple illusion summoning, was it?”

Were the illusions ‘seen’ by the summoned ‘Bahamut’ being transmitted to the real ‘Bahamut’?!It was also the first time Leeha had heard about this.

“Lord is having a blast”, they said.

“Phew, well, that’s good then. But, why does Blaugrunn-ssi’s voice sound so gloomy?”


“…Because the reason Lord is having fun… is because from now on, Bluebeard will never leave you alone, Leeha-ssi.”

“What, what? This-”

“Such a troll!”

To think the leader of the metal dragons found amusement in others’ misfortunes! However, Leeha had a vague feeling about it. Although he hadn’t checked all the details of the achievement, he had clearly seen the notification for the first one.

“The very name of the achievement gave off that vibe.”

『Achievement: Bluebeard’s Great Ire(S)』

Glory be to you! You have led one of Bluebeard’s highest-ranked aides in the Demon Army, “Le’s throne to death! Only two creatures are directly linked to Le’s spirit and hold the highest ranks within Bluebeard’s forces: the dinosaur Toon, third in rank, and ‘Bathory, the Blood Maiden’, second in rank. By killing one of the two, you have incited Bluebeard’s wrath. Though we believe you not to be easily vanquished, please proceed with caution. There’s nothing more dangerous in this world than an old man’s obsession. He will never give up on you.

Rewards: Stat points 25

+10% additional damage to monsters affiliated with Bluebeard’s forces

Alert function when Bluebeard is nearby

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Bluebeard’s Great Ire (5)』.

The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the existing effect will be increased by 200%.

Effect: Stat points 50

+20% additional damage to monsters affiliated with Bluebeard’s forces

“Wow, class $! Ah~ but…?”

The words ‘There’s nothing more dangerous than an old man’s obsession’, and ‘He will never give up on you’, sucked the joy out of the achievement, making it hard to purely enjoy.

“So, there’s an alert function for when Bluebeard is nearby. Guess I should be thankful for that.”

But what use would the alarm be, Leeha wondered. Though uncertain of its functionality, if it was Bluebeard, even multiple alarms wouldn’t prevent him from easily taking Leeha’s head.

Blaugrunn: Moreover, I can’t go there even with soul resonance. Summoning and appearances won’t work, so please be extra cautious.”

Leeha: Ah, so Blaugrunn-ssi can’t come either. Seems like a place completely sealed off from anything related to space.”


Blaugrunn: Yes. Even the Lord said it wouldn’t be easy.”

Leeha: Hmm… If Bahamut can’t make it, then Bluebeard probably can’t either. Then I guess I don’t need to worry. Got it. I’ll contact you again when I return.

Blaugrunn: Oh, and a message from the Lord! ‘Since you’ve killed Toon, go to the far east. You might find what you’re looking for there.’

He didn’t elaborate on what he meant, though. Please return safely!”

Leeha processed Bahamut’s message while filing Toon’s nails. It wasn’t entirely unexpected.

“The far east, the extreme east.”

Where was Toon originally heading?

The ‘Kingdom of the Dinosaurs’ where he was from, was said to be in the far east.

“But what I want… How do they know what I’m seeking? Does he know I’m looking for Elizabeth?”

Right now, what Leeha wanted was to encounter Elizabeth. However, connecting his direction to travel east with Toon’s ‘far east’ was not straightforward.

“If they’re both part of the Demon Army- no, it’s hard to see it that way.”

If Leeha plainly assumed Elizabeth and Toon were allies, it would be difficult for him to act rashly.

“That means I have to see the two as opposing sides before I can move freely… but wait, Toon’s homeland- no, hold on.”

Leeha’s hand, which was filing Toon’s nail, briefly stopped.

Why did Toon choose to return to his homeland at this moment?

“Let’s assume there’s a place filled with dinosaurs like him… The destructive power of each individual would be no joke: Then? There must be a reason they haven’t been recruited as allies before.”

Leeha turned on his system window and nodded.

It wasn’t that they hadn’t been recruited; it was that they couldn’t be until now.

『Achievement: End of the Saurus Traitor』

『Congratulations! You have confirmed the existence of a species thought to be extinct, mentioned only in legends: the “Saurus.”

Even though it was through death that Toon’s identity as a Saurus was revealed, the mere confirmation of his identity will make every archaeologist and biologist cheer!

What is the societal structure of the Saurus, and how do they live? The historians of Middle Earth await your next move.

Rewards: Stat points 25

+20% increase in affinity with the Saurus royal family

Passage rights within the Saurus nation

『End of the Saurus Traitor』 You are the first to register this achievement.

The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the existing effect will be increased by 200%.

Effect: Stat points 50

+40% increase in affinity with the Saurus royal family

“Indeed~~”

The name of the achievement itself was telling.

The ‘Traitor’ of the Saurus tribe.

What was the reward? From the perspective of the Saurus tribe, it was as if Leeha had killed a member of his own species.

Nevertheless, the rewards for the achievement included ‘Royal Family Affinity’ and ‘National Transit Authority’.

“In other words, Toon must have been a significant problem within the Saurus tribe. That’s why Toon couldn’t take an easy way out from the beginning… But they really gave it a random name. Saurus is just a dinosaur, right?”

Leeha finished looting Toon’s corpse with a hollow laugh.

『You have acquired the Legendary Sharp Claw of a Saurus.』

『You have acquired the Legendary Sharp Claw of a Saurus.』

『You have acquired the Legendary Skin of a Gigantic lizard.』

『You have acquired Legendary Bone from Toon, which is impervious to strikes (a piece of the breastplate).』

『You have acquired Legendary Bone from Toon, which is impervious to strikes (a piece of the breastplate).』

『You have acquired Legendary Bone from Toon, which is impervious to strikes (a piece of the breastplate).』

『You have acquired the Legendary Vocal Cord of Toon.』

“Whew… if you exclude a few things that passed for dinosaur meat, this is it. Everything, absolutely everything’s legendary.”

They couldn’t be used immediately.

But to think that all these material items were of legendary quality!

What kind of items could one craft from these using which methods!?

Leeha examined the details of the items.

Two claws that could be used as swords or spears, one skin that could be turned into a coat, and three bones that could be modified into armors or shields.

“Indeed. As expected, the reason why attacks couldn’t penetrate must be because of the bones. No matter how much one strikes the flesh and muscles, ultimately, it seems nearly impossible to breach the bones. With this size, it might not even be necessary to transform it into a shield. Just using it as it is should suffice.”

The fact that the fragments of the bones were this large made Leeha admire Toon’s size anew.

“And the last item… the vocal cord? I didn’t expect the vocal cord to appear. Are they suggesting I mimic it?”

Considering Toon’s size, it would only make sense if even its vocal cord bone was as big as Leeha’s torso. However, now that it was reduced to an item, Toon’s vocal cord wasn’t that large.

‘It’s almost the size of a trumpet, though.’

Leeha crammed the items into the bag.

Leeha was worried that the breastplate, torn from Toon’s chest, would be too big to fit into the bag, but fortunately, that was not the case.

“Everything fits except for a musket. It seems musketeers were discriminated against from that point, damn it.”

Leeha slung the bag over his shoulder and moved on. There were still two achievements he hadn’t checked, but honestly, he just wanted to get out of here.

Even Bahamut couldn’t teleport immediately from this place. Although he verified that fact, he couldn’t guarantee that Bluebeard wouldn’t be able to come as well.

“I need to find a teleport point quickly… If I die carrying all these and drop them – I can’t even imagine what would become drop items!”

The thought of dying while carrying all these legendary material items and dropping them was truly horrifying.

“Jellypong! Let’s hurry!”

『Woong!』

With the 3-dimensional maneuver of Jellypong Flight, Leeha’s body began to move quickly. Shwoosh, shwoosh!

A very faint gaze followed Leeha as he moved swiftly. From their distant position, Leeha appeared as a mere dot. However, both observers were watching Leeha without the aid of any auxiliary items, using only their naked eyes.

Of the two watching, a man spoke, “Lucky we don’t need to go help, huh, honey?”

(To be continued…)
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“Hmm… What do you think?”

The woman asked the man.

The man, eyeing the departing figure of Leeha, nodded.

“He seems much better than my dongsaeng or Browless’. Not sure about his skills, but in terms of cunning… he was very… very interesting. Seems like he wouldn’t get along with Kyle, though.”

Observing Leeha were Brown and Elizabeth.

Brown was commenting on Leeha when he turned around. A little away from Brown and Elizabeth, Kyle was sitting hunched over, his hood pulled up over his head.

“Too cute.”

“What, what? What are you talking about, honey?”

Brown looked at Elizabeth with a baffled expression.

Of course, elizabeth wasn’t commenting on Leeha’s appearance.

“Oh, come on! What were you thinking? I was talking about that guy Leeha’s quick wit!”

“Ah, ah? Quick wit? I thought- what-”

“Ha, my dear might not understand, but the fifth skill of Black Bass is for emergency escapes, you know? Being able to use it so boldly for attack… I couldn’t have imagined. And how about the endurance of Toon’s teeth? If he could withstand that, he could have used it when he met me.”

“It seems we’ll meet him soon if he keeps up that speed. Let’s ask when we see him.”

Elizabeth said with a twinkle in her eye, and Brown showed a bit of surprise.

Hearing Elizabeth suggest they ask, she turned sharply to look at Brown.

“Ha, dear?”

“Hmm?”

“Seeing him like that makes me not want to meet him, right? Let’s go quickly!”


Mischief sparkled in her eyes.

“If it were Browless, honey would never understand me saying that.”

“And you, dear?”

“Of course, I understand! Let’s run away! So he can’t catch up! Kyle! Kyle! Are you okay?”

Though Brown momentarily faced with a ridiculous look, he was, after all, elizabeth’s husband.

While making comments that would have outraged Leeha if he heard, Brown and Elizabeth helped Kyle up and moved. Yet, even so, they moved at least twice as fast as Leeha who was using Jellypong for transportation.

“What are you talking about? Huh? What does Leeha-ssi say?”

“Keke, seriously, gathering all together just to hear a word.”

Members of the Byulcho Guild swarmed nearby, their ears perked.

With so many whispers floating around, and Leeha too busy to give proper answers, it was an unavoidable situation.

*Sigh*”

It couldn’t be helped but to talk with Leeha through a representative. The corners of Kijung’s mouth lifted in anticipation.

“Okay! He’s here, he’s here!”

“What? What’s here?”

Bobae looked at Kijung with eyes full of curiosity. Bobae, along with many in Byulcho, was eager to hear about anything related to Toon.

How they managed to capture him. How did they find out where Toon was? Where is Leeha now? What was the special strategy used?

Who was with him, and so on, endless curiosity!

“Rubini is just online now! It’s a tough time because of internal guild conflicts lately! Should we really pull her into Byulcho as Biyemi suggested?”

While all were curious, Kijung gestured with his fingers making a ”…

“Wait, so you’ve been talking about that with Leeha-ssi all this time?”


“Uh, yes?”

“Haa… That’s disappointing, Kay. Well, not that I should say disappointing, but.”

“Now is the time to be honest, Hyein. I’m disappointed too. To miss out on the opportunity to hear the legendary tales of Leeha-”

“Wait, wait! What’s with all of you!? I’m still the guild master! Isn’t the Holy Knight quest more important? If Rubini comes, our quest completion rate will shoot up!”

Kijung looked around at them, dismayed, but all showed disappointed expressions. Of course, it was unlikely that the members of Byulcho considered the guild master’s second class advancement that important.

After all, they had given up their own quests and hunts to gather for Kijung’s quest completion. Nonetheless, Leeha’s act of killing Toon was no small matter – for Byulcho at a small scale, and the entire Middle Earth online community at a large scale, it was a tremendously significant event. Giggling, Biyemi turned to the guild master.

“How about we chase down Leeha-nim and give him a taste of his own medicine? It feels like we need to knock him down a notch to feel satisfied. Even Jin Gonggong is joining in.”

“When did I ever say that, Biyemi!” protested Jin Gonggong.

“Let’s take a break. Rubini will be here soon… We’ll greet her and then re-strategize”, suggested Kijung amidst the teasing and chaos, sighing and shaking his head.

As the members of Byulcho were checking their gear in various locations, Bobae, suddenly lifted her head.

“I don’t think we have the time, Kijung.”

“What? Something’s coming.”

“What is it?”

“I’m not sure yet. Over there! Anyone with an observation skill available? I’m still on cooldown. Can someone check that direction?”

“I’ll go! 『Polymorph: Sparrow』!”

The place Bobae had indicated was a hill not more than 150 meters away. Given Bobae’s ranking, she didn’t need to see to sense the presence. However, she sought confirmation, prompting Jin Gonggong, now transformed into a sparrow, to scout ahead. Despite the sudden tension, the members of Byulcho and the Paladins were ready for battle, knowing well the area mainly harbored monsters.

“Assume formation first. If they charge from the hill, the impact will be huge. Especially, don’t engage with the giant beasts directly”, instructed Kijung.

“Biyemi, prepare your poison pools. Hyein, have your anti-gravity and gravity skills ready. You know the casting order, right?”

Nods from Biyemi and Hyein followed. This was not their first battle. They had faced all sorts of enemies, landscapes, and situations together, making current preparations feel almost basic.

“I’ve spotted the group beyond the hill!- How many are there?


-Wait, hold on. The numbers are-”

Jin Gonggong’s message was abruptly cut off, causing Kijung to grip his shield tighter. However, Jin Gonggong quickly clarified, “-They’re not monsters.”

“Huh? If not monsters, then what?”

Kijung questioned.

Bobae was baffled.

“That’s strange. It doesn’t feel like players or anything familiar… Ah! I’ve felt this before – it’s the paleos!”

“paleos?”

echoed Jin Gonggong and Bobae together.

Stunned, Kijung muttered, “paleos here… why?”

“paleos! Not just one or two tribes either! Oh, there’s something else coming from that direction!”

“Jin Gonggong! Calmly, one at a time, please!”

“First, on the other side of this hill, we have these long-armed monkey-like creatures! And among their group, there are lizards? No, snakes too. lizard and snake paleos as well.”

“How did you know they were paleos?”

“There are both humans and half-beast forms among them!”

Jin Gonggong could see various paleo tribes gathering and moving together. Yet, what troubled him was not just their presence.

“Beyond them, there are… Mammoths! Wild boars and buffalo paleos! Dogs! Green mountain dogs? Dog paleos too?”

“Even pigs and buffaloes were near…” Kijung turned around.

Seeing their guild master’s serious expression, the guild members grew tense.

“Uh oh… Whenever the guild master looks like that, good things never happen.”

“What’s going on, Kay?”

“It’s the paleos.”

“I knew it! paleo! But why are the dogs here?”

“I’m not sure. But there are more than just one or two. Jin Gonggong saw at least six… Six tribes are on the move.”

“What??”

Bobae, initially thrilled his hunch was correct, could no longer smile. The paleo, why are they here? They were supposed to be peace-loving primitive tribes, living in harmony with nature.

At the core of paleo is a 『mystical creature』, from which they inherit the animalistic strength7) and abilities surpassing those of an average human. Yet, they never ventured beyond their domain.

“Why do you think the dogs are gathering?”

“It’s not a usual occurrence. The Red Goat paleos said they don’t even have a map. To say they’re completely ignorant of the outside world is an understatement… It’s astonishing.”

Bobae posed the question, and Hyein responded immediately, in a manner befitting the brain of Byulcho.

“Kijung, what should we do?”

“Hmm, well, since we agreed to meet with Rubini here, let’s just wait and see for now.”

The movement of the paleos, reminiscent of a mass migration, was no ordinary event.

However, the issue was whether it had anything to do with them.

Byulcho and Paladin, who had been hunting monsters in their pursuit to change their class to Holy Knight, had no reason to fear the paleos.

“There’s also a Snake paleo, keke. I know a bit about that mystical creature. Let me just make a quick call.”

“Oh, right. We’ve raised our affinity with the Dog paleo before, so let’s ask them.”

Inspired by Biyemi’s words, Kijung immediately sent out a spirit message. However, both of their expressions darkened instantly.

“Huh?”

“The spirit message isn’t getting through…”

There were two possibilities: either the mystical creature was dead, or it was “blocked?”

“Ke, keke. Surely not? Blocked on purpose?”

Kijung and Biyemi looked at each other. Even Biyemi, who said “surely not.”

could only think of that as a possibility.

“If the spirit message isn’t going through, it’s a possibility. Especially since everyone’s been in an uproar because of 『Subjugation』.”

“Hmm, but Shin Nara pulled back Lark’s forces, so I heard it’s been quiet lately.”

“That’s about the Virtue Knights. There are countless knight orders waiting for the moment Shin Nara isn’t around?”

Hyein lent credence to the “blocked”

hypothesis.

In fact, while Lark and the Virtue Knights had stopped performing 『Subjugation』 and were focusing on hunting, other knight orders were camping near each paleo tribe, waiting for Shin Nara not to intervene.

From the paleos’ perspective, whether it involved the Virtue or not, the distrust towards humans was sky-high.

What would happen if distrust continued to build? For Byulcho, it was a misfortune.

“Well, sacred can’t be everywhere at once. It’s impossible to block everything-”

“-Attack! We’re being attacked- They’re using bows! Guys who look like chimpanzees have bows- no, guns!? They have guns! They’re armed with–”

“-What? That’s alarming.”

“-Aargh!”

Suddenly, amidst the conversation, there was the sound of gunfire.

This was clearly not a good sign.

“Damn it, Jin Gonggong!”

“Gunshots!? What, Kijung? Why all of a sudden did Jin Gonggong—”

“Follow me, all Paladins! We’re going to rescue Jin Gonggong!”

Kijung did not elaborate further. But everyone understood from the sudden gunfire and the words Kijung said.

“We’re under attack?

“Even using items.”

As they rushed toward the hill, the users’ minds began to cloud with confusion.

“We are not enemies! I don’t know why you are attacking-”

“Shut up, human.”

“I’m not even human! I’m a Giant.”

“From now on, anyone who comes from across the sea is our enemy.”

Jin Gonggong stumbled backward, clutching his thigh.

There was no way to escape from the countless ranged weapons aimed at him.

Using a teleport scroll would be slower than them pulling the trigger.

“Let’s… let’s talk slowly. You remember me, right? From before! When I shared food with the-lizardia species and you all-”

“It’s shameful that we’ve only now realized that was a cunning trick of yours!”

Jin Gonggong pointed to a paleo with the half-dog appearance, one of the ‘eldest’ class 480.

The Dog paleo ‘eldest’ glared at Jin Gonggong’s words, fueling his animosity.
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“Having seen us, we cannot let you live. It’s just a matter of whether it happens sooner or later. Farewell.”

One of the bonobo paleos turned away.

The signal to start the attack was seen, and at that moment, as Jin Gonggong tightly closed his eyes, a voice came from behind the hill.

“No wayyyy! 『Seal of Protection』.”

– What followed the voice was the sound of countless bean-sized bullets exploding. Sounds like crack! and clink! continued non-stop.

“All paladins, form a barrier. Holy Shield.”

Holy Wild!

Three hundred paladins simultaneously activated their skill.

Jin Gonggong was still far ahead, but now there was no need for Byulcho to approach any closer.

“Are you okay, Jin Gonggong-ssi?”

“I got hit by, by two more shots. Arghh, it hurts.”

Hyein, who had teleported Jin Gonggong to safety, along with Bobae and Tale, was now tending to his wounds. It meant that not all attacks could be blocked, even with Kijung’s skill.

Of course, not dying was what mattered most.

Kijung immediately deactivated his skill and stepped forward.

“… Taking hits on behalf of others? How-”

A bonobo paleo cut off his sentence, furrowing his brow.

“-Oh, is he a loyal follower of that giant?”

His expression was distorted, trying to hide his shock.

If he took the hit instead, then judging by the norm, the human coming towards them should also have become a guardian, but the approaching human wore an exceedingly serene look.


It was no less than the dignity of a prospective holy knight.

Not even items crudely made by orcs or kobolds, but items made with sincerity by bonobo paleos, were unable to inflict significant damage on Kijung.

“You wouldn’t understand. Defending isn’t just from the bottom up. It’s also from the top down! I am the guild master, and that person is our guild member. So, I will ask. Who are you? And why are you attacking our guild member suddenly?”

After checking his status through the character window, Kijung asked.

He wanted to counterattack, but what was important was to understand their ‘purpose.’

“A guild… So you call groups of humans that. Well, you seem to know already.”

The bonobo paleo nodded after hearing Kijung’s words.

Kijung realized that this creature before him was not an easy opponent.

‘Not a mystical creature but a regular paleo with such knowledge of us? This is the first time I’ve seen such a paleo…’

Even paleos near Juma City, like the red goats or black cranes, took considerable time to understand the concept of guilds.

A group formed by those who are not family nor friends but share a common goal.

“This monkey knows the concept. Have many players already passed by here?”

Kijung asked the bonobo paleo.

If the response to his formal speech was disrespectful, Kijung had no reason to respect the paleos anymore.

“What do you know?”

“When I touched that giant, you said ‘protecting the guild member.’

Then why shouldn’t we do the same?”

“Huh? I don’t understand. I haven’t touched any of the paleos gathered here.”

“No, you did. You just didn’t realize it!”

The bonobo paleo’s eyes sparkled.


Although Kijung confidently stepped forward, as he gradually understood the paleo’s words, he couldn’t help but relax his stance.

“What are you talking about- wait, hold on-”

“You humans have touched our paleos. Aibex and Hudid contacted Cobra. Harhe also joined, I heard.”

“What… What do you mean?”

The bonobo paleo stepped closer. Kijung stepped back.

It wasn’t just because he was overwhelmed by the bonobo’s presence.

“Okay, come back. It’s better to retreat now.”

“Huh? What do you mean, Hyein hyung. We should listen until the end–No. I understand now. We have to go back. There’s no chance of winning. According to Bobae, there are over fifteen hundred paleos laid out around us. We can’t handle this.”

It was because Hyein, who fully understood what the bonobo paleo was saying, was there.

As Kijung moved, the bonobo paleo’s gaze grew even more intense.

What was happening was beyond the understanding of Byulcho’s guild members or the paladins a good distance behind Kijung. However, Kijung could not forget the look in the eyes of bonobo paleo.

“I never thought I’d be grateful to humans. Thanks to you, the guardian gods who haven’t communicated for over 300 years started exchanging messages. In your terms, they’ve formed a ‘guild’.”

Eyes filled with resentment are hard to forget.

“Everyone dies-”

“Kay! Quickly-”

“Aaagh!”

“-『Mass Teleport』!”

Hyein immediately charged forward, grabbing Kijung and disappearing.

At the same time, everyone else who had been instructed by Hyein earlier was enveloped in a pale light.

“-Ah… should’ve… I never expected you to catch on so quickly. Blocking space should have been my first move when dealing with humans.”


bonobo paleo clicked his tongue, searching.

A pig approached him, snorting heavily.

“What shall we do, Pygmy.”

“There’s no change in plans. For now, all paleos in the western part of the New Continent must unite.”

“Will the guardian gods also come then? Ah-”

“Exactly. And… we must all join forces to expel the outsiders. Those barbaric humans.”

bonobo paleo’s older hyung, Pygmy, looked out towards the hill that Kijung and others had sprinted over.

“How do we differentiate teleport points though? Jellypong, can you tell?”

『Myong?』

“Impossible. Hmm, should I keep summoning and testing with Blaugrunn-ssi? It’s complete drudgery. Maybe I should just have Luger keep using chain teleport? Hehe. No harm to me since he can move to my location in an instant-”

Kijung: Hyung! Hyung!

Leeha, who was rambling in front of the unresponsive Jellypong, was startled.

Only after displaying the expression of someone caught in a mischievous act did he realize who was calling him.

Leeha: Oh, Kijung? What’s up?

Kijung: It’s serious! The paleos have united!

Leeha: Huh? What are you talking about? Oh, right. Hey! I picked up Toon bone, and its performance is-

Kijung: No, it’s not the time to talk about items! The paleos have united!

Hearing Kijung’s urgent words, Leeha shrugged his shoulders.

The reason Leeha couldn’t easily comprehend the message was also because Kijung had omitted a crucial word.

Leeha: Why does that matter? That’s great! If they’ve united, those guys who were boasting about 『Subjugation』 will now be-

Kijung: That’s not it! I was attacked by the paleos! Hyung, don’t you remember?

Only then did Leeha’s expression turn serious, realizing what Kijung being ‘attacked’, who had been sympathetic to the paleos, meant.

Leeha: …~ No way.

Kijung: It’s pure ‘human detestation’. Just a glimpse earlier showed more than fifteen hundred.

Leeha: The paleos have united to attack humans? But, suddenly-

Kijung: It’s not sudden. There have been signs. You said so yourself.

Leeha couldn’t continue his earlier thoughtless words.

From when the Virtue Knights first intervened, and they faced off with Lark, this was the worst scenario Leeha had imagined.

“Ah… those crazy bastards!”

Leeha sighed. It was not ‘sudden’ for the paleos. It was merely the culmination of long-standing grievances.

Looking solely at the small accomplishment of 『Subjugation』, they had inadvertently brought about a more significant danger.

‘It’s not just making the New Continent play difficult. Damn…”

Without the cooperation of the paleos, playing in the New Continent could become difficult.

That was why Leeha had stood in the way of Lark and the knights with the goal of 『Subjugation』.

But now?

It was not a matter of not cooperating; they were united in their intent to attack?

Leeha: Oh! What about the mystical creatures?

Kijung: None.

Leeha: Phew……

Kijung: That’s hardly a relief.

“Yes. Wouldn’t they call the mystical creatures for using ‘guns’, not bows? Hyein hyung thinks that once their place is completely secured, all the mystical creatures will gather.

Guns? Guns, you say? What kind of gun?

I don’t know. But it wasn’t a musket. It was this paleo that looked like some kind of monkey… Biyemi called them bonobo paleo.”

Leeha’s expression turned as if he had been struck. They must be talking about the bonobo paleo. Then, they wouldn’t be using something like a ‘musket’.

“Crazy… to think we entrusted 『Enhancement』 to those things…”

It seems like a bad move now.

At least, the schematics for Leeha’s Black Bass and Luger’s Cobalt Blue Python are not perfectly intact.

“Of course, they can’t produce exactly the same thing. Or, could they possibly?”

Even so, they couldn’t possibly be legendary items. It was certain.

No matter how capable those bonobo paleos were, they couldn’t effortlessly produce such things. If fifteen hundred paleos were armed with Black Bass, no force in Middle Earth could defeat them.

“Still, it won’t be ordinary. It’ll be much better than the muskets sold in the Old Continent.”

How about proficiency? It wouldn’t match his own. However, even if it’s not a musket, a bolt-action level item wouldn’t require much time to master, which was also a problem.

“Are you coming, hyung? From the looks of it, they might storm into Juma City in a few days.”

“… I want to go. But teleportation doesn’t work here. Going back would take at least a week.”

“Huuuh… is that so?”

Listening to Kijung’s sigh, Leeha thought of someone. Leeha’s face grew fierce.

“Ah, right. Kijung, I’ll contact that side.”

“That side? Which side?”

“The bastard who caused this situation. Let’s hear what nonsense he’s spouting even now.”

“Wait, hyung! Don’t make the situation worse–The situation is already bad. What more can you do? Just wait.”

Leeha immediately softened his voice.

Leeha: Lark? This is Leeha. Lark: … Huh? Oh? Really? It’s really Leeha? Wow, nice to hear from you! I thought I was blocked and was about to speak first-

“Cut the chatter. I’ll ask you straight. Do you know what’s going on with the paleos?”

“Who? What?”

Leeha counted between seventeen and nineteen about five times to calm down.

He hadn’t said anything special, but it was difficult to figure out what to talk about with a person who was as good as dead based on voice alone.

Still, now wasn’t the time to get angry.

Leeha: I won’t go as far as to call you ‘Eijay’… But you should take responsibility. The person who started a fire, must extinguish it.”

Leeha slowly relayed to Lark what he had heard from Kijung.

With a strong nuance that all of this was his fault. Lark listened obediently to Leeha’s words.

Lark: That’s serious… But you see, I’m currently bound by a ‘contract’.

Leeha: Another – Huh… What is it?”

Lark: Ah~ What to do. I’m in a situation where I can’t attack paleos at all… What should I do? I should ask Dame Shin for help?”

Leeha: Dame Shin?”

Lark: Yes, yes. That Dame Shin. I lost to her in a 1:1. So, I’m really impressed with her determination to target only me. Anyway, I ended up promising, no, contracting not to point even the tip of a sword at paleos for about a month. Sigh… If I don’t make a move, neither will the Virtue Knights. From what I hear from Leeha-ssi, we should negotiate before the paleo groups grow larger… Somehow, if Leeha-ssi could bridge the gap, neatly break the contract, and tidy up the gathered paleos. Well, that would cleanly wrap things up.”

Leeha’s rationality snapped.

Rather than reflecting on his mistakes, and without any intention of taking responsibility for what had happened, he was first and foremost thinking about his own gain.

Leeha: Hey!!! You!!!! will die when I come back!”

“Jellypong! Stop! Let’s find the teleport point first!”

『Myth, mongryong?』

Leeha: Luger! Kidd! Both of you, stop talking nonsense and keep using chain teleport on me, keep it activated. Until I say stop. Got it?”

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi! Continue using the summoning magic. Until mana synchronization. Lark couldn’t know.

Nor could anyone in Middle Earth. It was the first time in the history of Middle Earth that Leeha was completely infuriated by someone.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner: I am fucking hate Lark. I hope he dies misserably
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“What’s going on?”

“Hey, that one’s got quite the temper. Whew! Who went to suppress the Gorilla paleo just now?”

Lark asked Pung while scratching his ear. They couldn’t just be waiting around in Juma City.

The method they chose, given that any attack on paleo was forbidden, was hunting monsters near the Red Woods. It was a way to not only level up but also significantly strengthen the organization of the Virtue Knights.

“Let’s see… I believe it’s the Picante Knights today.”

“Picante, huh? Do you know who the leader of the New Continent for them is?”

“Of course. What would the financial officer do if he didn’t know that? Why? Want me to tell you?”

“Yeah. Quick.”

Lark received the name of the leader of the Picante Knights from Pung.

He immediately sent a whisper to the leader of the Picante Knights.

“The paleos are acting up? There wasn’t any issue until just yesterday, and now this all of a sudden?”

Of course, this was to verify something Leeha had said.

Lark: Ah, hello. I’m Lark from the Virtue Knights.

-I’ve heard great things about the 『Knight of the Rainbow』.

Lark: You flatter me. It’s nothing, really.

…while Lark’s face was completely stern despite the warm, salesy greeting.

If the leader of the Picante Knights had been there in person, they would have been shocked by the disparity between his words and expression.

“It’s true. Harhei and the Gorilla paleos have left their post. Such cowardly primates.”

“What? What does that mean?”


“…It means the paleos are up to something. Where did Leeha get this kind of information?”

Lark frowned.

He hadn’t stirred up Leeha without reason.

“How dare they discredit my achievements… I had neatly planned my debut in the New Continent with that.”

『The Slayer of Toon』, the sudden uproar in the New Continent, was not the scenario Lark had wanted. If he were to kill, it had to be in a battlefield with everyone watching, through his power alone.

“It must have been that fourth wave thing. That was the time I suspected Toon would exit the scene. Despite not having lived in the New Continent for long, he had predicted quite a bit through the series of events.

If Leeha hadn’t killed Toon, who could assert what would have happened during the fourth wave? It was entirely plausible that Toon’s kin, the Saurus, would have become more rampant, a possibility he had foreseen.

Having shown deeper insight than even those users who participated in all three waves, Lark was indeed upset by Leeha’s feats.

‘And to think, he knows information I don’t. What could Leeha’s information network possibly be? Only the Holy Grill in Gaza City, as far as I know. The information of the New Continent… Sacred Knights? The Sacred were only around Juma. Byulcho? What’s Byulcho doing these days?’

Lark nodded to himself. He was through thinking it over.

“That’s it. If information were to leak, it could only be them.”

“Anyway, we’ve got only one thing to do. Pung! Call everyone together.”

“Why all of a sudden?”

“I won’t repeat myself.”

With Lark’s gaze turning serious again, Pung, the financial officer, could no longer object. The ultimate command of the Virtue Knights in the New Continent rested entirely with Lark.

“We return to Juma City and complete our reorganization! Everyone will likely need to visit their home country. You have two days! Finish all preparations within two days and gather in Juma!”

As Lark shouted, the members of the Virtue Knights stirred.

The murmuring quickly died down as he raised his fist.

“In a few days… something very interesting is going to happen near Juma City. We might even earn an achievement for exterminating the paleos… Prepare accordingly.”

“Exterminate! If we do such a thing, the Papacy-”


“No, no. This time, it seems we’ll need direct permission from His Holiness himself for the situation that’s going to arise. Hehe. Everyone, return!”

As everyone used their return scrolls, Lark quietly summoned Pung.

“Pung?”

“Eh?”

“Didn’t you say there was a map marking all of the paleo tribes.”

“I still have it.”

“Who brought that map?”

“Espion.”

“Espion… You’re talking about that soft-spoken one?”

“Yes, that’s the one.”

“Got it. Contact me if anything comes up.”

Lark patted Pung’s shoulder and immediately teleported to Juma City. Since the Virtue Knights’ headquarters were always formed on the outskirts, there weren’t many suitable places for their main base inside Juma City itself. This was precisely why Lark had authorized everyone to return to their homeland. Regrouping required everyone to go back.

It was when the considerably large Virtue Knights were not moving as a unit but scattered in individual actions.

“Espion?”

“Sir! Did you call for me, captain?”

Lark had been waiting for this moment. It was impossible for the quick-witted Lark to not have suspicions about the “map marking all the paleo tribes.”

“Ah… The map you brought last time was really good.”

“Are you talking about the map, sir?”

“Yes. Can we talk for a moment? Where you got it, and from whom… I think I might need a personal route too.”

“A route, you mean…?”


“I don’t want to lag behind anymore.”

While Leeha was frantically searching for a teleport point, angered by Lark, Lark too was devising several ways to outdo Leeha.

“Finally, calming down. Jellypong, let’s stop by that-hyungok over there for a while.”

『Myong!』

Leeha, passing through the forest, had Jellypong stop.

It had taken a full six hours for the anger induced by Lark to cool down.

During that time, while Leeha had searched all around for a teleport point, the “resting place” in the Eastern part of the new continent wasn’t so easily found.

“Kidd has logged out, leaving only Luger grumblingly cooperating… Well, I guess Luger’s in more of a hurry.”

Luger, taking steps with every teleport attempt of the Three Musketeers to reach Leeha’s destination, was indeed working hard.

To Luger, who hadn’t even seen Toon’s shadow, the location of Leeha, who had killed Toon, was truly like rain on dry ground.

Naturally, he thought the East, much further ahead than himself. Indeed, Leeha was quite significantly skewed to the East compared to Luger.

If Luger could just instantly reach Leeha’s destination…

Not only shortening the travel time, but also a chance to find a saving point was what Luger grumbled ceaselessly about, yet cooperating with Leeha was exactly for that reason.

“I have to crack that damn head open. It’s a waste to go back on foot after coming all this way.”

Not going back, the snickering voice of Lark lingered in Leeha’s head, presenting an annoying choice.

“Finding a teleport point seems best. But that’s easier said than done! There’s not even the slightest hint about whether it’s in the East or North! Not to mention basic information about what it looks like or how a teleportation site is supposed to be.”

This inefficient “blind searching” was definitely not what Leeha wanted.

“Hmmm… Turns out, there’s only one option.”

『Myong?』

“Finding someone who knows where the teleport point is, that is.”

『Myong! Myong!』

“Why haven’t I used such a good method before? Because—”

That person meant either Elizabeth or Brown.

In other words, not just wandering around the site where Toon was killed to find a point, but moving even farther East to discover Elizabeth!

“Probably… They must know.”

Leeha remembered what the dark spirits Shade had said.

Elizabeth and Brown frequently traversed the Dark Forest. Did they just loiter near the entrance?

“They must have crossed it. Beyond the Dark Forest, into the Eastern part of the new continent, they must be looking for something there, visiting often to find it. And considering that we haven’t yet found any trace of them, what they’re looking for must be further East.”

What could it be? What was it that made it impossible for Fernand to explain? Of course, Leeha had his own guesses.

“It must be related to the Arcane Sniper. That son of theirs, Kyle, is said to be in a terrible state… Maybe it’s something like a cure?”

Lying flat on his back with his arms as a pillow, Leeha knew that rushing things wouldn’t solve anything. The priority was what mattered now.

“The rumors are starting to spread in Juma City too. They’ll spread quickly. Kijung’s Byulcho team fortunately escaped safely. There’s news that a significant number of regular players hunting nearby were affected. If the paleos gather… and even the mystical creaturess join… Even the high rankers won’t be able to sit still. Above all… what would the papacy say? Shouldn’t we start by talking to them?”

Would Bailephus, who has a strong resistance against battles with mystical creaturess, just stand by and watch?

What about the ranker, Lee Jiwon, who is rumored to have already killed a mystical creatures?

To acquire a skill beyond 『Thunder Cloud』, the second-ranked Magic Swordsman will become a threat.

“One by one, the mystical creaturess are akin to Adult Dragons. If all the paleos in the western part of the New Continent gather… There are definitely paleo tribes I am unaware of.”

Would there be around fifteen tribes? Twenty?

Leeha shook his head. Even at the maximum, it wouldn’t exceed twenty tribes.

“That means about twenty Adult Dragons. The number is astonishing.”

Having observed the gathering of metal dragons and their kindred, Leeha was more certain than ever.

“The total number of dragons in a single species was around forty.”

Of course, not all were Adults. Among them were dragons on the brink of transitioning from Juvenile to Adult, and even Ancient dragons.

Twenty mystical creaturess with power close to that of Adult Dragons couldn’t be considered a light force.

“The problem is when they all gather. Even a slight disarray could…”

The possibility of the paleos in the western part of the New Continent being annihilated couldn’t be dismissed.

However, mystical creaturess with the power of Adult Dragons like Bailephus or Alexander wouldn’t just attack ‘while taking it easy’.

It’s a situation where two forces clash with full strength. It’s definitely not something to welcome.

“Winning will incur great losses, and losing means the end. Moreover, if this kind of news…” What if ‘someone’ hears about it?

Lying down, Leeha suddenly got up.

“Yes, that’s right. There’s no way she doesn’t know. Chiyou must be aware. And if she knows”, even if she didn’t, she would’ve discovered this information within hours.

If this story reaches Chiyou, then who would be the next to find out?

“Bluebeard! Damn it! mystical creatures fighting humans is exactly what those bastards enjoy the most!”

So far, Bluebeard hasn’t personally intervened.

This was fortunate for Leeha and all humans. But why hadn’t he intervened personally?

“Because he had a proxy. And Bluebeard himself had other things to deal with.”

Now, there was no guarantee that Bluebeard wouldn’t take action personally.

“I… By killing Toon–” No longer does he have a proxy. There was a time when he entrusted Faust with the role of the chief strategist of the Demon King’s Army in the Lope Continent, but the objective of the Demon King’s Army then and now is entirely different.

It’s not merely about attracting attention to prevent them from heading to the New Continent, but about awakening the 『Divine Staff』 and thereby Ghibrid.

“The likelihood of Bluebeard acting personally has increased! Even if Bluebeard doesn’t act himself–”

Leeha swallowed hard.

Among the achievements gained by killing Toon, one name came to mind. Toon, the third in command of Bluebeard’s forces.

The first in command is, needless to say, Bluebeard himself.

Then the second?

Aside from Toon, who claimed to be the left hand, who is Bluebeard’s “right hand”? Leeha knew the name.

“Blood Maiden Elizabeth Bathory!”

No matter who comes, it would lead to the worst possible scenario.

The anger towards Lark had faded. Leeha must find Elizabeth as soon as possible and thus used Jellypong as a three-dimensional maneuver gear to head east again.
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“Uh…amazing. So, because you dress like a ninja, you gather information like one too?”

“I’d prefer if we could do without the pointless chatter.”

“Oh, did that make you uncomfortable? My apologies, I didn’t mean to. I had somewhat guessed that there was a user mixed in with Bluebeard’s crew… but meeting in person like this, I got a bit too excited.”

Lark offered a kind-hearted smile.

The person standing opposite him had their face covered with a thick mask. Seeing no particular reaction from the masked man, Lark once again broke the silence.

“The fact that you approached us so quickly after finding out we were on your trail… well, it naturally suggests that you have quite a lot of connections in the royal palace.”

“You don’t need to know.”

“Huh, seriously. You’re being so tight-lipped without even proper introductions. But since you contacted me directly and even arranged this meeting place… it seems like you might have something to say to me.”

Lark tapped the hilt of his sword lightly as he spoke.

Apart from the fact that he was in New Continent, he couldn’t pinpoint his exact location.

He had quickly tested the teleportation scroll and the crystal ball, neither of which activated, leading him to conclude that quite a bit of effort had been put into this.

“Getting information from Espion and moving on to the palace, and not even a day after beginning to trip up, the fact you reached out means the intelligence network of the force that has the paleo tribe all marked on a map for the palace is that much faster.”

It’s not just about the speed of information. To think they would call me out like this…

Lark closely observed the masked man.

The dim lighting made it impossible to see the other’s eyes.

‘I wonder if they’ve gauged my personality too?’

To not simply snuff me out but summon me to a special location where teleportation or location saving is disabled, what could be the reason?

Especially since Lark himself was no ordinary user.

Lark gripped the hilt of his sword, smiling slyly.


“So, what is it that you want me to do? From the standpoint of Minis’s capital defense knights, to ‘collude with the demon king’s army’ and you—hmm, there seem to be about five or so others around. So, should I take the heads of all six of you back to the royal palace?”

A knight of the kingdom!

He must absolutely obey the commands of the royal palace, and especially in the New Continent, he must follow the directives of the Ezron Papacy, the antithesis of Marat.

Considering he had been called forth, the man in front of him not only had various information networks but also a considerably remarkable ability to read and judge people quickly.

“If that was my intention, I wouldn’t have come in the first place.”

“Why? You think it’s as easy as memorizing your faces and names before putting up a wanted notice through Minis?”

“If you think it’s possible, feel free to try.”

“Oh, oh! So, you’re already prepared? You’re confident enough to stop me from doing that, then? Even against the 『Virtue Knights』?”

Lark looked genuinely intrigued.

In reality, if Lark followed through with his mentioned approach, it might be impossible for them to continue playing unhindered in Middle Earth.

However, the other party exuded confidence, a certainty in their ability to ‘block it’.

“If you have hands that can reach into the wanted postings, you’ve bribed people in the palace strong enough to influence, or are you a part of some powerful group? Or perhaps fools?”

Was the other party lying or not?

“Let’s end this meaningless standoff. I’m not completely intent on dragging you into this.”

And then? The name is…

“It seems we’ve got an issue with a witch coming in—”

Interrupted midway, “Please call the person in charge, not you… It seems there’s someone behind this.”

Lark did not miss even the slightest slip of the tongue. The word ‘we’ is something a person in charge should never utter because they are supposed to make decisions and judgments alone. Hence, saying ‘we’ implies there is someone above even him.

The man hastily tried to feign ignorance with a puzzled look, but Lark was not one to be fooled so easily. How many seconds of silence passed?

“Hmm, still not showing yourself, huh? Okay, I get it. If there’s no trust between us, things can’t proceed. I’ll be off then—”


Click, clack, click, clack.

As Lark turned to leave, the sounds of footsteps echoed through the room.

“Oh ho ho… Impatient, aren’t we, Sasuke-ssi? You may leave now.”

Chiyou whispered a firm warning to Sasuke, then finally stepped in front of Lark, the commander of the 『Virtue Knights』 in the New Continent. Revealing herself was not something Chiyou had hoped for, as it could potentially put her at risk. However, realizing that Lark was more perceptive than she had anticipated, Chiyou could no longer keep herself hidden.

“A lady, huh?”

“I’m Chiyou. This is our first face-to-face meeting.”

With just these few words, including revealing her name from the start, Lark deduced that Chiyou was a higher-up compared to Sasuke.

“Ranker Chiyou. So, you were here? A ranker siding with the Demon King’s Army… And of all places, a ranker from Minis.”

Lark had to continuously force a smile to hide his dismay. He had suspected that there was someone behind Sasuke, but never could he have guessed it would be Chiyou, a ranker within the top 10 from Minis.

“Our request is simple. Please interfere with Master Kay’s hunting.”

Chiyou emphasized the word ‘our’ while smiling deliberately.

However, Lark was not deceived. Unlike Sasuke’s natural mistake, it was clear that Chiyou was intentionally trying to confuse him.

“Master Kay… As I’ve said before—”

“You can’t wield my sword against users.”

Chiyou interrupted Lark smoothly, “I know, Lark. After all, I did not ask you to kill Master Kay. But there have been many paleos gathering near their hunting grounds lately…”

“So, you mean to use them? Well, since I’m in a situation where I can’t attack paleos… Having them chased away ‘naturally’ could work. If those fleeing happen to run towards Master Kay’s people, it wouldn’t be a big issue.”

With just a few words from Chiyou, Lark crafted a plan. A tiny hint from Chiyou and Lark’s quick wit found the solution instantly.

Their eyes met in the air, entwining. Even though Lark had spoken the ‘correct answer’, Chiyou’s reaction was hard to read, prompting Lark to speak again.

“It seems like a simple task. Why bother with something like this? Got a grudge against Master Kay?”

Lark was quick-witted, but Chiyou was equally fast.


“It’d be a pleasant outcome for the users, but personally, I want to prevent him from achieving his second class advancement. Especially since it’s related to the Papacy… Just thinking about it scares me.”

Chiyou let out a sig of amusement, causing Lark’s usually composed expression to harden for a moment. Second class advancement! Chiyou casually leaked the information she had acquired, stirring Lark’s competitive spirit.

“What do you gain if I jump into action?”

“Well, since I’m already siding with the Demon King, I’d naturally cheer a little harder for his victory, right?”

“And what do I gain? Whether Master Kay advances or not is actually none of my concern.”

Until a moment ago, Lark had been blazing with rivalry spirit, but now he wore a serene expression. Someone else might have pointed out Lark’s abrupt change in demeanor, but Chiyou did not. She understood the meaning behind Lark’s actions.

“Of course, that alone might not justify the means. But what if I offered you information on paleo locations and the geography of the Central New Continent?”

“Not bad. Not bad, but if I were to interfere with Byulcho, I’d have to risk my life. It’s going to be a terribly difficult task. But that… seems a bit small, doesn’t it?”

Receiving terrain information and paleo-related intel from Chiyou could save the Virtuous Knight Order a tremendous amount of time. Most importantly, if they could get a hold of the characteristics of the paleos in advance? For Lark, devising a strategy to subdue them would be as easy as pie.

“After all, it would only take three or four days for the paleos to start wreaking havoc. Is it just about causing interference to Byulcho in the meantime?”

Lark was cutting straight to the heart of the matter. Considering the hassle of enduring three to four days, the information from Chiyou would certainly be a profitable deal for him.

Yet, he was playing hardball.

“Is that information not enough for you?”

“Well, it’s our first meeting, isn’t it? I was hoping Chiyou-ssi might kindly offer a bit more~.”

“Alright. In that case, let me provide you with a special bonus service.”

Chiyou raised her palm in a gesture of defeat. Even seeing this, Lark did not let his joy show. As the corners of Chiyou’s eyes curved into crescent moons, she whispered in a very soft voice, “In addition to those things… How about a few interesting facts related to your sword?”

“What!?”

Lark’s expression hardened.

Chiyou laughed as she watched Lark gripping the handle of his sword reflexively.

“Oh, do I see a hint of red? No, that’s impossible. Oh, Chiyou-ssi, you exaggerate too much. Do you even know what my sword is? And as for the information, rumors, or facts about my sword that I use… You think I haven’t looked into it? I am, after all, a member of the Virtuous Knight Order.”

Lark’s reiteration of his affiliation carried much significance.

Of course, Chiyou understood this.

“Obviously, I know. Being a member of the Virtuous Knight Order, you must have connections with the royal family to some extent, and you probably did a considerable amount of investigation. But it’s true that there are secrets you haven’t unearthed, isn’t it?”

“And you know these secrets that I don’t?”

“Believing is at Lark-ssi’s discretion.”

Chiyou covered her mouth and smiled. Seeing her eyes curl like crescents, Lark swallowed dryly for the first time since his arrival. He had to acknowledge that the upper hand he had been holding onto all this time had passed to the other party.

“However… Trying to fish without bait seems a bit malicious.”

“If there are fish that bite without bait, why bother?”

Chiyou laughed again. Lark had to decide. Was this woman telling the truth, or was she lying to use him? The intense battle to read each other’s minds was sparking, but on the surface, they merely appeared as a laughing man and woman. And the leader of the Shinobigumi knew how to read people’s eyes accurately. She knew exactly what Lark was thinking at this moment.

“There are known to be seven, but not seven… Something that is both color and light… No, something that is both color and light, wasn’t it?”

Hearing Chiyou’s words, Lark closed his eyes. He couldn’t afford to show his surprise.

“Okay. I understand. For now, let’s go with what Chiyou-ssi suggested.”

“Hmph. It won’t just end with ‘for now’. The second step, third step, and forth – you’ll have to do it all with me.”

“That depends on how much we can trust each other, doesn’t it?”

“Agreed.”

Chiyou extended her hand. Lark took it.

Moments later, Lark received various location information and coordinates.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 666

				
Arcane Sniper 666

“Success, Count. If he moves as planned, we can prevent the appearance of the Holy Knight.”

“…It’s insufficient.”

“Pardon?”

“Insufficient… We are lacking people to move.”

Even as Chiyou reported, Bluebeard’s expression remained unsoftened.

After Toon’s death, Chiyou, who had never once seen Le smile, was only worried about what kind of irritation he might show next.

“If there’s anything lacking, please let me know through me-”

“Don’t be ridiculous. While there might be few as good as you at moving behind the scenes, what I’m talking about is someone to lead the charge.”

“If you, the Count, would take the lead-”

“Then who would search for Pyrot Cocri? If only that Bathory fellow were here, I could trust him with this…”

As Bluebeard sighed, Chiyou bowed her head again.

“Bathory…? That’s a name I haven’t heard before. Heh, good.”

Even though she was disregarded by Bluebeard, one of the reasons she sided with evil was that general users couldn’t access information as quickly as she could.

“-Sasuke, investigate this character, Bathory. He must be very close to Bluebeard. Focus on data from the Horsemen War.”

“-Ah, got it, oka-san.”

“-If you find out quickly, I’ll overlook your slip-up with Lark. Hurry.”

“-Roger!”

If Chiyou realized that Leeha had come across the existence of this character, Bathory, first, she would be furiously outraged, but that was beyond her knowledge.

“So, when exactly do humans and mystical creatures clash?”


“The exact date hasn’t been determined, but it’s estimated to be within three days at most.”

“Within three days… First, confirm the exact moment.”

Just from what Bluebeard casually mentioned, Chiyou understood his intentions.

“Will you…personally make a move?”

“There’s no choice but to reveal the 『Divine Staff』 eventually. I wanted to delay making an appearance as much as possible…” Bluebeard indeed planned to act as Leeha had predicted.

The battle between the paleo and humans would be fierce.

If the prolonged battle involved significant forces from the nearby guards of the Divine Staff, creating a void in time and space? Bluebeard intended to exploit that opening!

Bluebeard continued to be deep in thought afterward.

“If we can’t seize the Divine Staff… then it seems we must resort to that.”

“Pardon? I don’t follow.”

“There’s no need for you to know yet. Anyway…” Bluebeard stood up and walked towards a figure tightly wedged inside a red crystal, Ghibrid, tapping on the outer wall of the crystal.

“My friend, it seems you might have to look after your own welfare soon.”

Tap, tap, tap.

The eyes of Ghibrid, sealed within the red crystal, flickered open. But that was it; Bluebeard said no more.

Meanwhile, Leeha was facing another change.

It hadn’t been long since he resumed movement.

At least a day had passed since he first heard insults related to Lark, and he finally stumbled upon something.

“…A flying type monster…? No, what is that?”

※ ※

At least it wasn’t an ordinary bird.


“But, that tail- Should I even call it a tail? What is that?”

As he crouched lower beneath the bushes, observing them, she noticed their balloon-like dusky bodies and the tentacles dangling beneath them.

Leeha thought they resembled arms and legs. However, what was even more astonishing was that the two ends of the elongated tentacles, which extended to float above their bodies, were rotating at an incredible speed.

“Squids? It’s as if they’re using the two longest tentacles among their squid legs like propellers.”

A giant squid flying through the sky. That was the only way Leeha could describe them.

Compared to squids, their bodies were much rounder and significantly larger, resembling an octopus’s head in some ways, though their overall form followed such a pattern. And the grotesque appearance revealed only one fact.

‘The chances are high that they’re monsters. paleos…’

At least they looked somewhat human.

The advantage of moving with Jellypong was evident. Without worrying about obstacles ahead, Leeha could always observe the sky, which would have been impossible if Leeha had to look down and run; he would have been discovered by them immediately.

Cautiously, Leeha mounted subsonic ammunition and a silencer onto Black Bass. He wished to eliminate the risk factor in advance, but it wasn’t wise to make a move without understanding their identity completely.

“We can’t determine their numbers.”

They seemed to move as a group, but then they scattered, making it impossible to figure out how many were gathering or dispersing.

In such a situation, taking the offensive with the thundering Black Bass would be a disadvantage.

“Let’s go slowly, Jellypong.”

『Mong.』 Jellypong’s arms moved smoothly. Given their unknown level of danger, it was only natural to prepare for counterattack and offensive action.

‘Shoot rapidly with a silent skill. Since I can use camouflage, I should be able to survive at least one turn in the worst case.’

However, the more time he spent in camouflage, the greater the damage not only to Leeha himself but to all users across the new continent.

“Not many attack skills- Oh, right.”

As Leeha thought about avoiding the gaze of the unidentified flying species by hiding, something suddenly occurred to him.

“There were two more achievements…”


The four achievements he had earned by killing Toon. Two of them had already been confirmed, but the other two had not been inspected yet.

“It’s all because of that jerk Lark. Suddenly angering me— Surely, the name of that achievement was…”

Feeling awkward, Leeha cursed Lark before finally checking the achievement.

『Achievement: Fall of the Giant Monster Commander(S)』 Congratulations! You have liberated the human alliance from terror. The infinite number of monsters during the First and Second Human-Demon Wars weren’t what instilled fear in the human alliance. Nor was it the Demon King’s Fragment boasting otherworldly strength. What truly terrified the majority of the human alliance was the overwhelming appearance of the giant monsters of the Demon King’s Army! The Grand Commander of these giant monsters, the ‘Saurus’ Toon, was practically the embodiment of fear for the human alliance. But now, with the loss of their Commander, the organizational power of the giant monsters has disintegrated and their ranks have collapsed. The giant monsters, once the embodiment of terror itself, now fear you, the one who has toppled their Commander! Reward: Dominion over Giant Monsters +50% (This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame.)

“Hehe, grade S, but what? No effect? No points either?”

Leeha was bewildered. In Middle Earth, where it was almost expected to receive stat points for a decent achievement grade, it was surprising to find a grade 6 achievement without any stat influence. Dominion over Giant Monsters? Is it similar to affinity with mystical creatures? But if it’s an achievement without a Hall of Fame, what’s with this ambiguous 50%, exactly?”

Having toppled the Grand Commander of the giant monsters, it should have straightforwardly given stat points, something like +50 points! Additional damage to large monsters +1000%! That was what Leeha had hoped for. But the scanty reward numbers and the ambiguity amidst them would normally have bewildered him. Very, very much so. But currently, he was not bewildered. Why? Because he had Lark, who infuriated and confused people even more.

‘Should I be grateful for this?’

Thanks to Lark, Leeha could look at the content of the achievement without being too flustered. It’s a S-grade, and it’s not supposed to be meager when he obtained it by killing Toon.

‘The only thing left is that there must be some secret hidden within the content of the achievement…’, Leeha nodded and closed the achievement window.

“Alright! Whatever, I’ll unravel it some other time! Not now.”

And then promptly opened the next window.

『Achievement: Supreme Rule Over Emotions – Fear Domination(S)』 The oldest and most powerful emotion, ‘fear’. By leading ‘Toon’ to death, you have inherited all the dignity and achievements related to the fear he had accumulated over time. By dominating fear, your name alone will stop a crying child, and a single roar will cause all to tremble in fear. I hope and wish that you will use this might on the right path. Reward: Stat Points 75

One-time Skill: Spirit Contract

Resistance to 『Abnormal Status: Fear』 +100% (This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame.)

“Eh? Wait, Jellypong! Stop for a moment.”

『Mong?』 Dominating fear? Leeha read the description in the achievement window again. He was too delighted by the fact that all four achievements from killing Toon were S-grade to even feel the confusing emotions.

“Spirit…? Why would a spirit suddenly come up here?”The text mentions inheriting the power of Toon and makes references to a spirit. Could it mean that the spirit is related to Toon?

“Skills, skills!”

Leeha quickly opened his skill window. A consumable skill that vanishes after a single use caught his eye.

『Spirit Contract (Fear)』

Description: Those who inherit the power of Toon can forge a contract with the terror spirit. The grade of the spirit is determined by affinity.

Effect: Summon the terror spirit

Mana: 1

‘The terror spirit… really? Could it be that all my suffering was because of this?’

Was it because of the terror spirit? Leeha found himself feeling somewhat baffled.

“When I sniped for the first time, the moment I gouged out its eyes. Was it at that very first moment of eye contact with Toon that the terror spirit clung to me? No, that would be an 『Abnormal Status』, right?”

If it were an abnormal status, surely a notification window would have appeared.

Even if not, just as Leeha had seen other mystical creatures, he should have been able to see the form of the terror spirit.

“Hmm… suspicious. A consumable skill without any grade or level.”

Does inheriting the power of Toon mean something as sudden as being drenched in darkness?

While looking at the simplistically written skill description, Leeha shook his head slightly.

Even amidst his curiosity and agitation, Leeha knew how to make the best decision.

“I’d like to try it right away… but they’re watching. That’s a bit of a problem.”

Observing the unidentified things still flying in the sky, Leeha decided to close the skill window for now.

If he were to trust this description and use it, that time would have to be when he was completely safe.

“Heh, but my resistance to 『Abnormal Status: Fear』 is quite something. As expected of a 5th class reward!”

This was the type of skill most used by warlocks and the sorcery profession.

‘Now that I think about it, when I caught- no, when I say it like that, it sounds weird. When I caught that fire bear, there was a set effect from the items that came out of it.’

Recalling his faint memory of resistance to terror and flame, Leeha smiled as he observed how much he had changed since then.

I’ve definitely become stronger.

Certainty about his own growth.

That was what reduced the fear towards the unidentified creature.

“I’ve even earned the achievement for dominating terror, so I can’t just sleep on it. Let’s go again, Jellypong. First, to a place where we can see where those things land.”

『Myongmyong!』

If he chose to, he could avoid it. But Leeha had a reason for heading that way.

“If there are societal life forms there… it’s likely a place where teleportation is possible.

Though he hadn’t found Elizabeth yet, if Leeha found an area where teleportation was possible, he intended to save it in the crystal ball and return immediately.

-Whoa,-hyung, Lark’s here again. Isn’t he just insane?

-What’s the situation with the paleos?

-About three mystical creatures have gathered. Judging by their speed, it looks like all of them will gather by tomorrow or the day after.

Having already made contact with Rubini, Kijung was avoiding the paleo groups as much as possible and fighting to destroy the monsters gathering for the 4th wave.

However, since yesterday, the one who appeared as a spoiler was none other than Lark and the Virtue Knights!

‘What in the world is ‘public good’? They clearly said you can’t attack the paleos… So why the heck is he dragging the paleos to interfere with Kijung’s group?”

Leeha furrowed his brow. He had heard something from Kijung.
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“It’s all because of the 『Subjugation』! Isn’t that why I’m going around seeking the paleos’ forgiveness? But the attacks are so severe that I have no choice but to momentarily evade. And it’s on this path of evasion that I encountered you all. What am I supposed to do?

I can’t just die for the paleos, right?”

There’s certainly logic in his words.

However, accepting such behavior now was something Leeha simply couldn’t believe. Even just hearing about it from Kijung made Leeha’s blood boil; had he been there in person, he might have truly blown Lark’s head off.

“If the mystical creatures start their assault tomorrow or the day after… It’s going to be a disaster.”

Leeha was also aware of the developments in Juma City through Shin Nara.

Notable users like Alexander and Lee Jiwon had already gathered there.

The rumor that the paleos might attack Juma City didn’t even take a day to spread.

There’s simply no justification to stop the conflict.

‘I hate to kill the mystical creatures, but we have no choice but to protect Juma City…’

Alexander and Bailephus indeed tried to negotiate with some mystical creatures, but the talks failed.

As for Lee Jiwon, he seemed to be excitedly sharpening his blade.

“This might all be part of Bluebeard’s plan – no, even if it isn’t his plan, Bluebeard wouldn’t just sit back and watch.”

However, even with this in mind, the problem remained.

The paleos’ hearts had already turned. Was there really a way to bring them back?

Even the Ancient Dragon Bailephus, who was respected by the mystical creatures, faced rejection. What could be done to return them to their original place?

『Myong.』

“Ah, thank you.”

Leeha, who was fretting over this, was gently nudged by a gelatinous creature.


Before he knew it, Leeha had been moved near the site where the curious beings had landed.

『Eagle’s Eye』

Worried that the scope’s lens might reflect, Leeha first used his skill to observe the creatures.

“What are they doing?”

It occurred to Leeha that these beings might not even touch the ground. They were wrapping something on the ground with their tentacles and then taking off into the sky, or they were placing something they already held in their tentacles onto a specific site.

Although the size and shape varied so much that it was hard to identify, what Leeha saw seemed very much “like something from reality.”

“Could it be… delivery – loading and unloading?”

It was as if he was looking at a ‘loading dock’, the resemblance was so striking.

Though the actual purpose was unknown, seeing the busy creatures made Leeha unable to shake off the thought.

“Pfft, what’s this? A monsters’ delivery service – no, not monsters. Um… what exactly is that– Gasp!”

It was then, as Leeha barely managed to suppress his laughter while continuing to observe, that he felt cold metal against the back of his head.

“Don’t move.”

The sudden, unfamiliar voice made Leeha panic.

“What the…? Are these monsters? The voice sounded almost human. Above all, the reason Leeha was shocked was that Jellypong hadn’t given any signal.

Could it be that a mysterious being had approached Leeha from behind and threatened him with a weapon without Jellypong noticing?

If that was true, it meant Leeha’s life was hanging by a thread.

“I had no intention of harming anyone. I was just captivated by a scene I saw while passing by.”

“That figures. I was pretty amazed when I first saw those guys, too.”

“Huh? This voice- Gasp!”

The voice that responded to Leeha belonged to a woman.


And it was a voice he had become surprisingly familiar with.

Just as Leeha was about to turn around, a thick hood was thrown over his head.

Even in this bewildering moment, Leeha remained composed.

No, he was smiling.

‘Nice!’

He knew well enough who those trying to restrain him were.

“Follow me carefully.”

“If you want me to follow carefully, perhaps you could remove this blindfold. It’s hard to see where I’m walking.”

As her voice filled the air, a man’s laughter responded before another man’s voice followed.

“… Certainly, you’ve got guts just like Honey.”

A slight shiver ran down his spine as he listened to Mr. Brown grumbling.

“Honey, huh… They still have-”

Thinking how close their bond seemed, he finally encountered Elizabeth in the eastern part of the New Continent.

“Ha! You didn’t have to go in circles. Do I look that much of a blabbermouth to you?”

As soon as the mask was removed, he gasped for air.

It felt like they had been turning in circles like a maze, but intuitively, he knew they hadn’t gone far. It was merely a trick to make it feel like they had distanced themselves.

Elizabeth’s lips curved into a smile reaching her ears at his words.

“See? Told you, darling! Isn’t he fun?”

… Such a personality would definitely irritate Browless.

“You, you’ve been scolded by Browless a lot, haven’t you?”


As Elizabeth clapped her hands, Brown asked while shaking his head.

He nodded easily to Brown’s question while still quickly scanning their surroundings.

“A cave… If there were to be a cave around where those squid monsters were-”

He recalled the terrain nearby resembling cliffs or mountains.

Although it seemed only about a ten-minute distance, it had taken him over an hour to reach this place.

What could be the meaning behind Brown and Elizabeth’s meticulous hiding of this place? Despite having invited someone over, why go to such lengths?

“Should I just be glad they don’t intend to kill me?”

He had thought so but couldn’t be entirely sure until he felt completely safe, which finally gave him a sense of relief.

“Where’s my dongsaeng? I thought you started at the same place.”

“Oh, Luger? He must be near the place where I fought with Toon. He lacks finesse, so it might take him at least a week more to get here.”

Luger, without any special powers, had to overcome all sorts of terrains using just his physical strength.

It had taken less than two days for him to arrive, but for Luger to reach this place, it would still take much longer.

“Ah, I see.”

“… You saw? Rather than knowing about it?”

He looked at Elizabeth incredulously. His mention of ‘the place I fought with Toon’ was to check if they were aware of Toon’s current state. But to think not only did they know Toon was dead, they had seen it?

“How could we not see it with all the commotion?”

“Wait, then you were near me at that time-”

“Yes, we were.”

Then why didn’t you say anything at the time? He swallowed the question that had reached his throat.

Seeing Elizabeth’s mischievous smile, he felt that asking such a question would only raise his own blood pressure.

In the situation of their current encounter, it wasn’t important to dwell on what had passed.

As he quickly looked around, elizabeth asked, “Looking for Kyle?”

“Ah, yes. Yes?”

“He’s asleep right now. So, both of us can pay attention to you.”

Hearing his awkward reply, Brown also spoke up.

The end of the cave-like area was not fully visible to him.

If they were using this place as a temporary dwelling, Kyle might be somewhere inside. The light-hearted mood from moments ago quickly turned solemn. Brown pulled another chair over with a resolute gesture and sat down, asking in a low voice, “What did Browless say?”

“You mean the headmaster?”

“Yes. By now, he should have sent a letter at the very latest. Was there no message to relay regarding him?”

There was a moment of confusion.

“A letter….”

Leeha tilted his head slightly.

Both Brown and Elizabeth frowned.

“Damn that adventurer. Did he not say anything at all?”

“You said yourself it might be a possibility. But given our commitment, the Pope himself ought to take a look at it sooner or later. It can’t be buried forever.”

Leeha looked at Brown and Elizabeth with puzzled eyes. Not slow on the uptake, it took him a moment to grasp the topic of their conversation but quickly pieced it together from their dialogue.

“So, you left a letter for Headmaster Browless too?! Well, that makes sense. Hence, Kidd was instructed to guard Browless’ decision-”

“Exactly. If the truth contained in that letter were to come to light, it might put Browless in danger.”

“What- What was in it? If you tell me now, I could-”

Leeha’s question was met with Brown shaking his head. Elizabeth, with a resigned look, silently watched her husband reject the request. She wanted to tell, but if Brown decided it was best not to, she had to respect that decision.

Leeha clenched his fists.

“It wasn’t an easy journey getting here. But then again, you have supported the restoration of Toon from the demonic source. It was enough to consider you enemies from my standpoint. But… I still came. Because I trusted you. Even if it meant risking my death, I felt I had to see for myself since the note you left me indicated to come alone without anyone else. Wasn’t the content meant to be kept secret?”

“You’d die.”

“What?”

“If I were to tell you the content of that letter-”

Brown glared at Leeha with a fierce look.

“-You’d end up dead.”

Even with Elizabeth’s typically playful demeanor, seeing Brown serious like this made Leeha unable to continue.

“Would we even be here if everything could be resolved with words? Do you think we came with such light hearts-”

“Darling!”

Elizabeth sharply interrupted Brown, who didn’t stop. Instead, Brown’s eyes blazed even more intensely, causing Leeha to shiver.

“-the meaning of leaving our country, friends, hyungs in arms—”

“Honey? I told you to stop~” Elizabeth interrupted with a laugh, tapping Brown’s shoulder, causing his expression to shift dramatically. The eerie intensity on Brown’s face was gone in an instant, like magic, transforming him into the amiable fool of the neighborhood. Leeha, unable to adapt to the drastic change in atmosphere, could only alternate his gaze between Elizabeth and Brown.

“It seems at home… it’s the wife who holds sway.”

Whether it was simply because she was the wife or because she was Elizabeth was unclear to Leeha. What was clear, though, was the need to follow their lead.

“Understood. So, what should I do now? You asked me to come here because-”

“Ah, the matter involving Browless was one of the reasons we called you here. But it can’t be helped. You’ll have to go back.”

Elizabeth said, shaking her head.

Leeha was taken aback.

“What?! How can you say that after I’ve come all this way! And there’s no way to teleport from here-”

“That’s alright, the ‘Hows-hows’ are here.”

“Hows-hows?”

“Them.”

Elizabeth pointed to peculiar life forms flying in the sky outside the cave.

“Monsters, aren’t they?”

“Monsters? If you say that, you might hurt the Hows-hows’ feelings. Anyway, they might look monstrous, but think of them as the ‘carts’ of the New Continent, capable of carrying anything, living or non-living, from one place to another. They’re like delivery workers.”

Brown clarified for Leeha, though it wasn’t something that could be easily understood at first.

“Huh? Squid-like creatures flying through the air as delivery workers?”

“Well, if you look closely, their flight pattern does resemble drones. Like unmanned drone delivery, perhaps.”
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Suddenly startled by a sound, Leeha’s head whipped around. Up until moments ago, he had thought they were alone, but now, elizabeth stood with a gun resting in her hand like a cane. It was the excessively long rifle that Leeha had seen once before.

“But I can’t just send you off right now. You’re too weak, and you’d only be a burden if we have to protect Browless.”

“That’s… rather blunt. It kinda hurts, you know.”

“But it’s true. Your approach to fighting Toon was quite creative, but in the end, you couldn’t kill Toon with a single shot.”

“Well, that’s because – right. Toon is ranked third among Bluebeard faction. How could anyone take him down in one hit -”

“If it were me or our Hony, it could have been done.”

“What??”

Leeha looked incredulously at Elizabeth who then glanced at Brown. Brown nodded as if to affirm Elizabeth’s words were true.

“A single ‘Pierce’ shot could have opened Toon’s jaw.”

“And aiming for the gap while his mouth was open, my bullet would have ‘Hit’ his Adam’s apple. Well, I guess I have to correct myself; it was two shots since it was one from Hony and one from me. That’s enough to kill Toon.”

Leeha couldn’t respond as he watched the two beam confidently. The journey here wasn’t uneventful. Even amidst the sudden encounter with the ‘Hows-hows’, Leeha had managed to check the items that came from Toon.

“The piece of Toon’s Breastplate, possessing immense defensive capabilities… Are such defensive properties of no value to them?”

“What should I do then?”

“There is a way”, elizabeth said with a smile. She had smiled at Leeha a few times before. But those were smiles of amusement, satisfied by Leeha’s actions.

“But that smile just now…”

However, it felt different this time, or at least that’s how Leeha perceived it. Maybe because he had seen such a smile on others, not Elizabeth, like from Sergeant Kim or Browless. Yet, it still felt distinctly different.

“Now that you’re here, there’s a technique that has become possible for you. Learning that should be enough to protect yourself and fight without much trouble.”

Elizabeth’s smile was that of a master looking at a worthy apprentice.

“Are you saying that you’ll teach me some sort of skill?”


“That’s right. Do you not want to learn? I’m quite busy myself.”

“Of course! I’d love to learn. But, it’s just – well, your kindness is a bit overwhelming.”

It was kindness Leeha had never expected, a kindness that extended to pointing out his deficiencies and encouraging skill acquisition. Throughout his time in Middle Earth, not once had he experienced such a thing.

Elizabeth understood his words. In that moment, Leeha grasped the difference between Elizabeth’s smile and those of Sergeant Kim and Browless.

“Until now, us old generation’s trio calling ourselves mentors have taught you nothing. Ideally, I should have been the one to teach you ‘Accuracy’, and you would’ve learned all these little details at the academy.”

It was not just a smile for a talented apprentice but one of obligation or perhaps guilt! Elizabeth, despite liking Leeha for his outstanding abilities, felt somewhat uneasy because she hadn’t been able to share her knowledge sooner.

“A chance to impart knowledge to a dongsaeng and apprentice sharing the same element, who hadn’t been properly nurtured until now!”

Leeha’s speculation turned into certainty, as the hologram window in front of him confirmed.

『You have completed the ‘Find Me’ quest』

『You have leveled up.』

『Attribute! The Accuracy Teacher』

Description:

“Truthfully, you’re a bit lacking in ability to learn this. But we don’t have much of a choice. My beloved and I won’t be here much longer. Well, the biggest problem is likely that it’s not easy for someone ordinary like you to understand something taught by a genius like me.”

Elizabeth and Brown don’t have the luxury of time. Constantly under pressure due to their precarious situation, they must impart as much knowledge and skill as they can in the limited time they have.

This is a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity to learn as much as possible from them.

Content: Undergo a week of special training with Elizabeth and pass the final exam (0/1)

Reward: Skill – Curve Shot

Condition for Failure: Failure of the final exam

In case of failure: Opportunity to acquire skill will be lost – Accept?

※


The hologram window was quickly reviewed. It talked about a week of training followed by an exam related to this training.

While the details of the exam were not specified, it was clearly associated with the week’s training. It seemed that completing a single mission would amount to the quest’s success, as it was measured by occurrences rather than a completion rate.

‘The failure condition is simple. Perhaps this is the easiest quest so far!?’

It was natural for Leeha to think so. After all, as Elizabeth herself had said, it was an opportunity for a teacher to impart knowledge to a student.

This shouldn’t be the kind of situation where one is harshly treated, Leeha believed.

“It’s only possible now with your ‘abilities'”, she said.

“Well, not 100%, but you should be able to learn it to some extent.”

“Abilities… Ah!”

Leeha asked about the somewhat suspicious part, which Elizabeth promptly clarified.

Abilities can be identified by their level and skills.

Alternating between the words ‘level’ and ‘abilities’.

So, what did Elizabeth mean by ‘abilities’?

“Character window!”

Name: Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 246 (1.7%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 140

HP: 8,170(5,719) / MP: 2,425

Stats: Strength 675(+590), agility 3,632(+1,319), intelligence 444(+299), stamina 291(+198), mind 125(+115)

Remaining Stat Points: 295

“My stats— woah… Insane, two hundred ninety-five?”


Twelve level-ups and three 5th-grade achievements, along with five bonus stat points received every ten levels.

Leeha had an impressive 295 stat points remaining.

“Is my ‘level’ somehow related to agility?”

“That’s right.”

Leeha did not dwell on it.

It meant Elizabeth had already finished her calculations.

“If it’s related to ‘agility’ but slightly insufficient, what could that mean?

My current agility is 3,632. Adding the remaining 295 stat points to it?

Agility 3,927.

Slightly less than the number 4,000. That must be the answer.

Even though Leeha was initially nonchalant, he couldn’t help but ponder again.

‘I must learn it, no matter what. But… will there be enough time?’

Elizabeth noticed Leeha’s furrowed brow.

“What now? Doubting?”

“No, not doubt, just…”

Leeha hesitated for a moment, then explained the situation in the western part of the new continent to Elizabeth and Brown.

The paleo tribes united against humans, with a large-scale battle possibly erupting within a day or two. If not prevented, Bluebeard might unravel the 『Divine Staff』.

In other words, he had to go.

To inform as many as possible and to seek the best method, however modest his power.

“Hmm… Can you cast messenger magic? Someone to inform about the battle with the paleos when it breaks out?”

“Messenger- ah, yes. I can.”

Hearing the mention of communication magic, Leeha nodded.

Not only Kijung and Byulcho but also Shin Nara. The battle with the paleos had officially begun, and they would immediately make contact.

“Can you come and go during the lesson?”

she asked.

“No, I can’t just look out for the situation only. You know what I mean?”

The moment one steps into the Western New Continent during a lesson, elizabeth and Brown could have vanished the next day.

“It’s originally a skill that requires at least a month to learn. You certainly can’t learn it easily. Setting a deadline of a week is also because I’m expecting you to at least grasp the concept.”

Hearing the mention of the training period required to learn the skill, Leeha nodded. It took a whole month to fully acquire the skill. For Middle Earth, that was an extremely long time. Considering the correlation between the learning period and the difficulty level?

“Then.”

“Whether you succeed in learning or fail is not my problem. Especially if you have to leave with no promise of returning in a day or two… It’s difficult to teach, isn’t it? It’s better not to learn a skill half-heartedly.”

Elizabeth indirectly made it known. The minimum educational requirement she could offer was exactly one week’s time. In other words, if you don’t have at least a week’s time, she won’t teach you.

“Damn it.”

Leeha had to make a decision. If he accepts the quest now, he can’t go to the Western New Continent. Knowing about the conflict between the paleos and humans and the opportunistic gains by the Demon King’s Army, yet having to endure it. To give up on the quest?

“That’s out of the question.”

It was truly a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity. Unlike Browless, receiving 1:1 tutoring from Elizabeth of “Accuracy”

may never happen again.

“This is exactly the moment for this.”

The only thing Leeha could say in such a situation. If the other party doesn’t budge? Make them.

‘Bargaining’

He must somehow negotiate the terms he wants. Even if it significantly increases the difficulty of the quest.

“One day… no, I’ll grasp it in two days. Please teach me.”

Clank, clank, clank-…!

Elizabeth’s hand, which had been handling a rifle, froze. Her expression changed vividly.

“You can do it in two days? You? It even took me three days.”

This was Elizabeth who had just mentioned that it takes at least a month to learn, and a week to understand the concept. Yet, she claimed to have learned it in three days.

Even in the midst of it, seeing her appeal to her own ability, a fire was lit in Leeha’s heart.

“A disciple ought to surpass their teacher, shouldn’t they? I’ll do it in two days. I’ll proudly pass whatever test you want.”

Leeha’s eyes sparkled.

“Huh, huh… Honey! Did you hear? He says he can do it! Alright, get up! We don’t have time. Practice starts now! With the House-Houses, we can reach the World Tree Forest in Central New Continent in two hours. We’ll train until the battle begins!”

Whoosh…!

At that moment, the hologram window in front changed.

『Attribute! The Accuracy Teacher』

Details: Two days of special lessons with Elizabeth and passing the final test (0/1)

Reward: Skill-Curve Shot, achievement-Extraordinary Success Condition for Failure: Failure in the final test Penalty for Failure: Loss of opportunity to acquire the skill Leeha looked at the hologram window again.

“An achievement-Extraordinary Success! Another reward!”

The skill ‘Bargaining’ follows a high risk, high return strategy. It was natural for Leeha, who was willing to take the risk, to get an additional reward.

“Understood!”

Leeha sprang up and took out a magazine. His will to press the accept button was firmer than ever before.

Bam-!

Achievement: Legendary Private Tutoring (S)

Congratulations! You have been selected to receive special tutoring from a legendary figure! This rare opportunity will elevate your abilities and shift the paradigm you’ve been operating under. Seize this chance to move a step closer to becoming a legend yourself and transform into a better version of who you are today!

Rewards: +21 Agility

Adjustment to the mastery level of the designated weapon skill (up to the highest tier of Master level)

You are the third registrant for the 『Legendary Private Tutoring』 achievement. The Hall of Fame records up to the third registrant, and you receive an additional 200% of the original effects.

Effect: +42 Agility

(To be continued…)
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“Wow! Just by accepting, I’ve achieved this!? With 63 more points in agility – ”

Leeha checked his stats. Currently, at 3,990 in agility.

It was a mere breath away from reaching 4,000.

“And an upgrade in mastery skill grade too. The unfortunate part is that my musket mastery skill is already at the master level… Leeha examined the skill level of his musket mastery.

Having used only one weapon, his musket mastery was already at the master level. But what did “highest limit” mean?

“Hmm? Master level at 14.9…? But, the master level only goes up to 2?”

It meant an upgrade to the highest stage within the master level! After master level 1*.9, the next would be an upgrade to a new rank.

With just a bit more proficiency in musket mastery, Leeha’s achieve “Legendary Musket Mastery 1*.1.”

“What are you grinning about!? Come out already!”

“Understood, master!”

“Master- ahem, that sounds too old! Just as a senior! I’ll teach you just one thing, got it?”

“Hehe, got it, senior!”

Even before the formal education had begun, the benefits were already significant.

However, Leeha needed to understand one thing clearly.

The special lessons taught by a legend were possible precisely because Leeha were given by legendary figures.

Following Elizabeth to a spacious open area, Leeha were filled with questions from the moment the lesson started.

“What… what do you mean?”

“Just try it. It’s useless to explain.”

Elizabeth – released a puff of gun smoke.


“But wait! That’s- that’s not something you can just do!”

“In the beginning, it doesn’t work.”

“It’s not about the beginning, it’s…”

“Don’t want to do it? Then quit. Try it.”

Elizabeth pointed, urging them to proceed.

However, Leeha couldn’t easily aim at the target.

Because it was too far? Because the target was alive?

No, that wasn’t the reason.

Leeha felt nothing for a mere wooden board with a target painted on it.

The problem was that from their position, the wooden board with the target wasn’t visible.

A huge rock was blocking their view between the target and them.

“What are you doing? Not shooting?”

Swallowing dryly, Leeha listened to Elizabeth’s prompting.

The lesson was simple.

Pull the trigger so the bullet would curve around the rock and hit the target.

It sounded utterly ridiculous.

“Insane… I’ve seen this in a movie before… No, before that! This is outright bizarre!”

The reward for the quest was clearly stated.

Clearing the quest would grant them a skill, specifically, curve Shot!

The test Leeha had to pass was literally proving he could perform a curve shot!


“This should be something you do after learning the skill! What, what are you talking about, lady?! I haven’t learned the skill yet… and you expect me to do it to then teach me the skill? Is that supposed to make sense!?”

This is Middle Earth. The impossible can become possible here.

However, isn’t that supposed to be when one harnesses the power of a ‘skill’?

“Not doing it?”

“Ah, yes. I must do it. Ahem. Then, I shall fire the first shot with my ‘Bullseye’ Ha Leeha!”

Leeha focused on a large rock, visualizing the target beyond it in his mind… and then, he made a move straight out of a movie.

The moment he pulled the trigger, he twisted the gun barrel all the way to his wrist, adding a flick of his wrist to the overall motion of the rifle!

Thwack——…! The edge of the rock cracked and splintered.

“Of course! How could this not work!”

If you think about the technique in billiards, giving the bullet a spin at the exact timing it passes through the barrel… like a kind of jab shot, that sort. Ridiculous formulas raced through Leeha’s mind. Regardless of Leeha’s thoughts, elizabeth spoke nonchalantly, “You do know we only have two days left, right?”

Her tone was as if she was stating, ‘Dessert means coffee.’

“Ah, yes, of course.”

Two days left.

Within that timeframe, Leeha had to master the curve shot without any help from skills.

Logging out was a luxury. Rest was a luxury.

Leeha sighed with relief as he saw the magazines stacked high in his bag.

“It’s a good thing I packed plenty of magazines, it could have been a disaster. How many have I gone through already?”

Yet, despite the many changes, the amount of enlightenment Leeha achieved did not proportionally increase.

Twisting his entire body and pulling the trigger did nothing more than miss the rock completely, sometimes absurdly so.

“What kind of confidence did you have to say you could do it in two days? Two days is one thing, a week wouldn’t even be enough. Do you know how many hours it’s been?”


“About… ten hours?”

“In ten hours, you should at least get somewhat close to bending it. It seems like you’re aiming more for the center. Are you trying to drill a hole through the center of the rock? That trick might work on Browless, but not on me~” Elizabeth stretched and said.

Leeha, who never intended to try such a trick, felt even more downhearted as he listened.

The excitement of being tutored 1:1 by a legendary figure had vanished to the distant skies after two hours.

“Ahem… Well, I might not be an expert on guns, but I know a bit.”

“Hmm. Didn’t you mention something about a silencer earlier? That was really interesting. Make me one someday. That bottle-necked, bushy old guy, why didn’t he give me something fun like that earlier?”

Leeha had tried everything from attaching a silencer to a stabilizer to succeed in the mission. Needless to say, all attempts failed. That Elizabeth showed deep interest in the silencer and subsonic bullets was a small consolation.

“No, what I’m trying to say is… this is physically impossible. Without an external force acting upon it, the idea of the bullet turning is… just nonsensical.”

Whether Leeha twisted his wrist, swung his arm, or twisted his whole body while shooting, the bullet would always travel in the direction the barrel was pointing at the moment the trigger was pulled.

That was to Leeha the most logical outcome.

Elizabeth quietly watched Leeha as he zealously explained. Feeling embarrassed, Leeha tried to elaborate further.

“If it were possible… maybe by adjusting the rifling inside the barrel? Hmm, if there was a way to apply spin to the bullet itself somehow. But right now, there’s no way to adjust the rifling on Black Bass, and besides, meddling with the rifling carelessly might even cause the barrel to bulge out, and there’s also the risk factor of-”

“Ah, ah, too much talking, too much talking.”

Elizabeth stood up, waving her arms dismissively.

Despite Leeha’s attempts to apply all of his theoretically available knowledge, that was merely according to what Leeha knew.

Elizabeth loaded a bullet.

The sound of the bolt being pulled made Leeha marvel anew.

“Of course. The bonobo paleo folks who disassembled Black Bass for 『Enhancement』 managed to create firearms beyond muskets. Much less Elizabeth who had used Black Bass her entire life… she wouldn’t be using an ordinary musket. Comparing a simple musket to Black Bass or Elizabeth’s current abnormal rifle would show generations of difference.

“You know the answer, right? If external force is applied, the direction changes. If you give the bullet that kind of spin?”

“Uh? Oh, yes. That is, if that were possible-”

“That’s why you use mana. Like this.”

Elizabeth swung her arm and pulled the trigger of the rifle.

Thwoooom———!!

A gunshot, much louder than Black Bass’s, resounded. The rock in front of Leeha remained unchanged, steadfast in its place just as before. Elizabeth had not specifically gone to fetch a target. The same was true for Leeha. Looking at her, confidently seated on the foldable chair, it was impossible to think she could have failed. Hence, Leeha could no longer raise any objections. It was only after silently resuming practice and changing three magazines that Leeha spoke again. The precious time of receiving special tutoring from Elizabeth also meant having time alone with her.

“Was the hint ‘to the east’ left because of the Hows-hows… because of them?”

It was an opportunity to obtain valuable information of any sort.

“Right. Well, I figured people who bear the name of the Three Musketeers wouldn’t just hide away upon sighting the Hows-hows”, elizabeth confirmed.

Indeed. Leeha nodded; the reason Elizabeth and Brown had only given ‘the east’ as a direction was as expected. But the conversation could not end here since the real information desired was something else.

“Then, you could have at least written the name Hows-hows on the note. Or perhaps described what they look like.”

“That’s not possible.”

“Why? Because you were in a hurry to write it?”

“No. There was a chance that the letter might be intercepted.”

The possibility of interception.

Swallowing upon hearing Elizabeth’s assertion, Leeha asked, “Were you worried someone might come after the two of you?”

“Huh? Ha, you’re fun. Who do you think would come after us?”

“Well, if anyone remotely menacing appeared even within 10km, you’d probably shoot them.”

“These days, I can’t hit things that far. As you know, the terrain here doesn’t really offer a spot that allows it, and so…”

Leeha struggled to keep his jaw from dropping. Was Elizabeth really referring to a shot taken from 10km?

“No way, I thought it was the Arcane Sniper who made that shot… It was Elizabeth?”

Pulling the trigger again, *BANG!* After the rock rustled, Leeha saw Elizabeth’s gun again. The scope was still absent.

“That distance, can you see it?”

“Well, 10km? I’m not sure about that. Strictly speaking, it was a bit over 8.6km. Beyond that, it’s not ‘seeing and shooting’.”

Leeha stopped practicing the curve shot.

Turning to Elizabeth, “If it’s not ‘seeing and shooting’, then how?”

“How should I put it, ‘shooting with trust’? Uhm, it’s hard to explain in words.”

Crossing her legs and resting her chin on her hand, elizabeth frowned slightly.

“Shooting with trust.”

Leeha pondered over Elizabeth’s words, but it didn’t make sense to him. In Leeha’s understanding, “sniping” wasn’t about shooting with trust. It was about perfectly seeing, perfectly measuring, and then firing. It wasn’t a gamble or about probabilities. It was about accepting the risk that there wouldn’t be a second shot in a situation that absolutely does not permit failure. But to shoot without properly seeing? Based on the sole belief that it would hit?

“If Sergeant Kim were here, it would have been quite the spectacle.”

The prospect of spending two nights and three days discussing sniping theories seemed likely. Maybe the two would have even brought out muskets and proposed a sniping match… Thinking up to this point, Leeha shook his head to dismiss the thought.

“But you said no one would come after you, right? So why worry about the letter being intercepted?”

At that moment, Leeha sensed a contradiction.

There was a definite contradiction in what Elizabeth had said. If Leeha were two people who feared no one, what was the reason for the concern about their location being revealed?

(To be continued…)
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Elizabeth’s expression suddenly hardened. After making brief eye contact with Leeha, she quickly looked away.

“I’ve even told the adventurer from Ezwen about it. I can’t speak of it.”

The reference to Fernand as the ‘adventurer from Ezwen’ didn’t even register in Leeha’s mind.

It was because of the question he had just asked, and Elizabeth’s response.

It made him think that this was their most significant piece of information and secret.

“I can’t speak of it… It doesn’t just feel like a secret that can’t be told. I can’t. Not allowed to.”

The nuances between the two phrases were subtly different, and Leeha focused on that difference.

If the former felt more personal and intrinsic, then the latter?

“External… pressure from outside. Is there something, or someone, influencing this? Her expression was indeed stiffer than usual.”

However, Leeha didn’t voice the thought that had suddenly occurred to him.

There was still plenty of time.

He needed to slowly unravel the issue by involving Elizabeth and even Brown in other ordinary conversations.

“Well, there are only 38 hours left until my first successful curve shot, so there’s not much time.”

Feeling the relative flow of time for conversation and quest practice, Leeha first organized his thoughts.

“Ah, you mentioned manipulating mana earlier, right?”

“Huh? Oh, yes. Think of it as embedding your mana into the bullet at the moment of shooting. Uh, imagine curving the trajectory of the bullet and grabbing its center with mana. Do you get it?”

The expression that had been rigid just moments earlier was gone.

Seeing Elizabeth attempt to demonstrate the flow of mana with her playful gestures, Leeha nodded, though it certainly didn’t mean he understood her explanation.

Listening to more would only add to the confusion, so it seemed wiser not to press further.


“You really need to have handled mana before, as clearly stated for musketeers. But what need does a musketeer have to use mana?”

From a musketeer’s perspective, simply repeating the skill name and 40 being deducted for the skill to activate was all there was to it.

In essence, Leeha had virtually no sense of how to manipulate mana.

“No, that’s right. It’s because I haven’t handled mana before-”

What would someone who has handled mana say if they saw Leeha now?

Perhaps, like Elizabeth, they might question why he is struggling with something so simple.

Leeha quickly opened his friend window. After all, wasn’t he acquainted with the most famous prodigy in Middle Earth when it comes to utilizing mana? Someone who, despite each skill requiring 407, manages to activate skills with just enough mana and can maximize a skill’s effectiveness by infusing all their mana?

Leeha: Ram Hwajung-ssi, are you busy?”

Ram Hwajung: Not too busy.”

Leeha smiled at the prompt response.

He felt one step closer to mastering the curve shot.

***

“Approximately 600m to the northwest… It’s coming.”

“Damn it! No need to ask who. Ahhh… Everyone, get ready! That cursed man is coming again!”

Kijung shouted as he swung his sword. The Paladins and the personnel from Byulcho didn’t respond separately.

How many times had it been? They were already too accustomed to it.

“How many are there, Rubini-nim?”

“As usual. Lark-nim is probably at the very rear, with about ten knights of Virtue behind him. And chasing them, at least eight hundred paleo.”

Rubini responded to Kijung’s question. Since Leeha had connected them, Rubini had been moving together with the Byulcho personnel.

As expected, her skills had been of tremendous help to Kijung. The number of people hunting monsters meant that they couldn’t exactly say experience points were divided. Furthermore, the items dropped were mostly junk, so there was little to no profit for Rubini in doing this.


Yet, she was offering help that was almost akin to volunteering!

Kijung was so moved that he had once attempted to raid the guild’s treasury, as she seemed to want nothing in return.

Of course, the reason she wanted nothing wasn’t because of the guild’s personnel or Kijung’s quests. That was something they didn’t know.

“When will Leeha-ssi arrive?”

“Leeha-ssi? Hmm, he seems to be busy with some quest right now. But when the paleo’s openly challenge us, he’ll definitely come.”

“Hope so… He’ll come then.”

Rubini whispered softly, bowing her head.

Her eyes were unseen due to the large eyepatch she wore, so Kijung couldn’t decipher the expression on her face.

“Kijung! We’ve almost cleared all the monsters!”

“Phew, miss Rubini, where should we head next?”

After subduing a group of demonic beasts, Bobae and Hyein approached. Rubini then launched a holographic map, scanning the vicinity.

“The closest cluster of monsters is about 110m to the true north. We might encounter ‘them’ on the way there.”

The ‘them’ Rubini referred to included Lark and other troublemakers. Kijung frowned.

He rather wished to flee to Juma City.

Since he couldn’t kill Lark or engage in an all-out battle with the paleo’s, avoidance seemed like the only option.

“Our completion rate is 49.7%… I think killing one more group should get us to 50%.”

But retreating to Juma City meant?

Lesser chances to encounter moving groups of demonic beasts. Kijung’s ambition to kill even one more beast was understandable.

“Let’s turn here… Just one last group before we go.”

No one opposed the Guild Master’s decision.


The paladins from Azure and the personnel from Stellar Corps were ready to move immediately.

“Miss Rubini, what about that direction?”

“No change in direction. They’re heading southwest as usual.”

“Okay, then let’s hurry. Everyone, move quickly!”

Kijung swiftly led the personnel.

Rubini, monitoring the holographic map, adeptly guided them.

After Rubini joined Kijung’s group, the quest completion rate for the Holy Knight advancement soared steeply.

They were not just wandering around; they could pinpoint and target only where monsters were, which was expectedly effective. Moreover, Kijung has noticed a pattern in the monsters’ movement.

“Okay, if we don’t run into those guys… this should be pattern 17. It’s not on Miss Rubini’s map yet, but there should be a few more clusters of monsters nearby.”

The gathering spots for monsters preparing for the fourth wave always changed. Occasionally, some patterns emerged, allowing them to block paths, but those days didn’t last more than a couple.

However, the current direction and number of demons moving were evidently familiar.

“About 20 minutes after dealing with these guys, another group of monsters will show up in the same place.

If we take down both groups, reaching 50% is certain. But there’s still more to catch…”)

It could be said that progress was relatively smooth, at least smoother than Kijung had anticipated.

Of course, this was solely Kijung’s opinion, already leading the overwhelming force of a small elite group named Stellar.

Moreover, with extensive experience in leading group battles, he was capable of efficiently deploying three hundred paladins, even introducing rotation concepts to provide the 1480’s appropriate rest, enabling continuous combat.

Above all, Kijung’s own abilities!

Possessing “insane tanking” capabilities, where he could single-handedly fend off the charges of giant monsters that could instantly wipe out a dozen players of his level in the New Continent, made everything seem manageable. An utterly average user would still have a single-digit success rate if they undertook the quest.

“Oh, I see it, I see it! The dust is visi-”

“Enemy sharp turn! Lark and the Virtue Knights are changing direction towards us!”

“-Huh? What?? When the horde of monsters finally came into Kijung’s view, an urgent report came from Rubini. On the holographic map, the white dots, previously moving in a different direction, started heading towards where the Kijungs were.

“Hmm? How did they find out about us?”

“Hehe, luck aside, it turns out the 『Virtue Knights』 indeed have the talent.”

Tale and Biyemi grimaced. But the one more surprised was Bobae, who felt no sign of Lark and the paleo despite looking in the direction they were likely to be.

“No way, we’re not in a position visible to observation skills. How can they recognize us in such a terrain with severe undulations? We’ve already used the mana detection blocking scroll…”

It was something she couldn’t understand. Regardless of her understanding, Lark was indeed leading a group of paleos towards Kijung.

“Kay. It’s still okay to turn back now”,

Hyein said, holding the staff and standing at Kijung’s side. Kijung pondered. If Lark came running, the fight would have to stop immediately and they’d return. That was the most common and certain choice. As it has always been. For days on end.

“No. Let’s head towards the monsters first.”

And so, Kijung decided not to avoid them. At least, not this time. Having always instantly fled upon seeing them without even proper communication, Kijung could no longer bear it. Without hindrance from Lark or the Virtue, they surely would have achieved more than 60% by now.

“Without the giant beasts, you can hunt enough without me. I’ll block Lark and the paleos, so during that time, please take care of the monster horde. Even if Lark or the Virtue Knights lock the space, Hyein hyung can still escape. Right? Rubini-ssi, how far are they?”

“The monster horde is about 1500m away, Lark and the others are at a distance of 270m.”

Fortunately, Lark and the group were heading for a ‘pre-movement’ location, so they were further away.

“Let’s go back, quickly!”

Kijung didn’t hesitate. Byulcho and the Paladins ran towards the monster horde. The monstrous horde, making strange noises, also spotted Byulcho and the Paladins.

“Bobae! Start with seizing the initiative! We need to wrap this up as quickly as possible-”

“Really now, Kijung-ssi! Do you think so little of me? I know that much without you saying it! 『Spiral Arrow』!”

Bobae pulled back her bowstring. The fired arrow was spinning like a bullet due to the rotational force. The monstrous ‘penetration power’ went without saying. A two-headed ogre at the forefront of the monster horde was hit by just one arrow and fell backward. Koooh Uuung…! With that impact sound as the signal, the battle commenced. Only after moving everyone forward did Kijung turn around.

“Lark…” From a distance, Lark’s figure started to become visible, followed by the tremendous dust cloud kicked up by the paleos. ※ ※ “Waaaah, master Kay, please help me! The paleos are trying to kill me!”

“Drop the lame act, Lark-ssi.”

Kijung gritted his teeth. Seeing Lark’s face unchanged and panicking, anger boiled inside him.

“Why, why are you getting angry again?! We came here to kill the monster horde too! Are these paleo guys my sworn enemies? They’re always chasing after me-”

“Why are you doing this?”

“Why? To stop the 4th wave, isn’t that obvious? I’m also a knight of Dominus! Of course, I have to fulfill the Vatican’s mission!”

Lark’s claim was always the same.

‘For the same reason as you’, he had come to subdue the monster horde, but somehow, the paleos always ended up chasing him.
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It seemed like a valid point. After all, Kijung had observed on several occasions that he was hunting monsters. But at the same time, it was absurd.

If he wanted to escape, he could just use a Return Scroll. He could’ve used a Mana Sphere or a Teleport Scroll as well.

“But he didn’t. He always ran away.”

Kijung was not one to believe such an unconvincing excuse that seemed more like an attempt to save scrolls. He was naive and simple, but he was not a fool.

If the direction of the escape was always towards Kijung himself, it was only natural to be suspicious. Today, of all days, Kijung refused to back down.

“I’ve been patient enough. Say one more thing, and one of us is going to end up dead.”

Kijung drew his sword towards Lark. The members of the Virtuous Knight Order that were already ahead had also prepared for battle. Lark’s face, which had been sullen, became serious in an instant.

“Hmm, but if I say something, we’ll have to fight. And if I don’t, given the situation, we’ll still have to fight……”

Lark gestured towards his back. The paleos were still in pursuit. It wouldn’t take a minute for them to catch up.

“Wouldn’t it be better to resolve this through dialogue, master Kay? Even if I block those creatures, it’ll be hard for you to deal with our group in under a minute. Defense might be possible, but attack would surely fall short on time.”

This was why Kijung, despite his disdain, couldn’t help but be wary of Lark.

When fleeing from the paleos, Lark always took the rear.

“On Rubini’s map too. He was always at the back, meaning, he was the closest to the paleos.”

A selfish and despicable person would have made his subordinates take the rear.

Because in the current situation where the full extent of the paleos’ forces was yet to be revealed, anything could happen. However, Lark always positioned himself at the very back.

At least two things were evident: his quality as a leader and his confidence in being able to withstand and then escape from the entire force of the paleos for a considerable time.

“Do not interfere. This is your final warning. If you come near us next time, we’ll consider it a deliberate interference and come to you first.”

Indeed, the chances of him being a nuisance were very high. Yet, how should one deal with someone who possesses a cause, ability, and even the qualities of a leader?

For the kind-hearted Kijung, making such a decision was exceedingly difficult. The sword he aimed remained undrawn, but the mere change in Kijung’s tone made Lark smile again.


“If you intend to exclude us, under orders from the royal palace… Well, we can’t just let that slide, can we? What do you think? Shall we have at it now, or should I bring an official letter from the royal palace next time and have it out then?”

If someone approached, he retreated, and if someone retreated, he approached. His ability to maintain an appropriate distance while provoking and drawing in his target was unmatched by anyone else in Middle Earth.

A reasonable person would have turned back by now. The paleos had already closed the distance to just 20 seconds away, their appearances becoming visible.

The ‘usual’ Kijung would have done the same. He would have preferred to resolve the priority issue first and end it amicably if possible. It was because he shared quite a bit in character with Leeha.

Unfortunately, the current Kijung was not the ‘usual’ Kijung. There were people who were naive and simple and who believed in the good of others.

Their ‘good’ should never be crossed. This was something Kijung and Leeha had in common.

“Come at me, you bastard.”

To these cousins, the user that they absolutely didn’t mesh with was none other than Lark.

“Wha—what did you say?”

“『Shield Enhancement』, 『Aura of Protection』, 『Triple Armor』. Let’s see who dies first.”

In an instant, Kijung, having completed his self-buffs, began to charge towards Lark. It was an unexpected moment, even for Lark. He hastily drew his sword but found it difficult to make an appropriate assessment of the situation.

“Kwangbong-ah! Kill them!”

“Red Goat! Wipe out humanity!”

“Black Crane!”

Behind them, the paleos began to transform, and in front, like a wild boar in frenzy, Kijung charged forward!

“Wait, just a moment! Wait— Hurricane—” Whooosh… Boom!

“Bl- Hm?”

“Yung…”

Just as Lark was about to cast a spell, a burst of fire exploded in the distance. Unlike fireworks, this pure ball of fire spread radially across the sky. Instead of admiration for its beauty or surprise, a more sober reflection came first. Witnessing this, the paleos halted their advance.

“Damn humans, consider yourselves lucky to have your lives extended by a day.”


“Kwangbong, Kwangbong- we’re turning back, Kwangbong-!”

The paleos, who had brought their claws close to Lark’s nose, all turned back. Even Kijung, who had exchanged the first strike with a member of the Bertrude Knights, could no longer move his sword.

“Turning back…?”

“Now?”

Both Lark and Kijung knew why the paleos had been in the vicinity. Thus, guessing the reason wasn’t difficult. Why had they turned back? What was the sudden explosion of fire about?

“Everyone’s here.”

“The mystical creatures— all the mystical creatures have gathered—”

“Kaha… That’s a pity. I wanted to see Master Kay’s skills. Well, we’ll be heading back. Take care of yourselves!”

Lark chuckled as he pulled out a return scroll. The member of the Bertrude Knights, who had already put some distance between himself and Kijung, also matched his timing.

“Kijung!”

“Kay! What’s happening?”

“We’re all returning to Juma City.”

Kijung bit his lip hard.

“Kikik, all of a sudden? But there are still some monsters left?”

“That’s not what’s important. For now… we need to block off Juma City. No, we need to, because if not… phew.”

Kijung rubbed his temples. The issue was complex. How were they to resolve this? Or perhaps it was something that couldn’t be resolved at all.

“Why? Why?”

To Bobae’s question, Kijung sighed deeply before replying.

“The mystical creatures have all gathered. The paleos have all turned back. Perhaps by tomorrow, they’ll be advancing on Juma City.”

The die was cast. What remained was war alone. The paleos, on the brink of losing their status as natives and falling to a lower class, clashed with the New Continent’s expedition members who, backed by various supports from the Old Continent, were duty-bound to harness power ‘in the name of God’.


Perhaps this was a fate decided from the moment the expedition team first landed on this land. Without any consultation, the coexistence of two civilizations was nothing more than a dream, something that had never existed in the course of human civilization.

“Are you really planning to fight, Alexander?”

Shin Nara argued passionately, even spreading her arms.

A day before, the paleos’ grand ‘Rally Complete’ sign had been seen by all users across the New Continent.

The paleos’ villages began to empty one by one, four days ago, and the circulating rumor was confirmed at that moment.

That is to say, today, the paleos are launching a full-scale attack on Juma City, a fact known to nearly all users in the New Continent.

Thus, Juma City was swarming with countless users from early in the morning.

For them, this was yet another ‘Wave’, indistinguishable from an event.

In fact, it could even be considered a better situation than a Wave. Back then, it was merely a collective of users, but now it includes all sorts of knight orders dispatched from the old continent. In other words, it’s an even better state for leveling up through combat. Unawares, Alexander, who now stood at the forefront of the defensively arranged group, had Shin Nara relentlessly sticking to him. It seemed the only way to minimize mutual damage in the current situation.

“There is no justice on our side in this matter. It’s the result of the reckless ventures born from human greed. I do not wish to interfere.”

『Neither do I.』

“Then, then! You shouldn’t have shown up here-”

“However, I cannot yield when it comes to defending Juma City for a greater justice. I have no intention of launching a preemptive strike, but my comrades and I will do our best to protect Juma City.”

“You’re saying you’ll fight in the end!”

Alexander did not respond to Shin Nara’s words any further. Although her anger surged towards him, she could no longer press Alexander for answers.

『Female warrior, Shin Nara. Mystical creatures are not foolish.』

“Wh-What??”

『Think about it. Those who have blocked the attacks of the demons, including myself, are here. Have you considered what it means for them to attack this place still?』

“No-Not really.”

『It’s a resolution to fight to the death. They’re expressing their will that strongly. If a few words from Alexander or myself were enough to deter them, they wouldn’t have come here in the first place. Above all… their forces are not to be underestimated.』 Shin Nara clenched her teeth. However, it was as courteously as Bailephus could possibly speak. Had she been any other user with nearly zero closeness, she wouldn’t have dared to receive such advice from an Ancient Gold Dragon. A regular user would’ve been regretting their arrogance whilst experiencing Bailephus’s claws and breath’s ferocity firsthand. Above all, Bailephus wasn’t wrong, leaving Shin Nara with nothing more to say.

There was another user who understood well the strength of mystical creatures.

“I acknowledge the words of the Golden lizard. It would have been so much better if you had just stayed hidden instead of revealing yourself. Talk about being foolish.”

“Lee Jiwon, I beg you, as a member of the Fibiel, fighting the paleos now would bring us no benefit. If you could just—”

“I can’t refuse a request from Dame Shin. It won’t make a difference if I stay out, but like the Golden lizard said, the other side is no pushover. If one of us, the concept junkie, Pei Wu, and I, were to step back, Juma City is likely to fall.”

Lee Jiwon was lying down with his head on his 『Thunder Cloud』.

His tone was light, but he too was quite tense about the upcoming battle. If either Alexander, ranking number 1, Lee Jiwon, ranking number 2, or Pei Wu, ranking number 4, were absent from this defense line, what would become of Juma City? It was the reason why, despite their reluctance, Alexander and Lee Jiwon had no choice but to be here.

Contrastingly, at several spots around the outskirts of Juma City, festivities were underway.

“Wow, there are seventeen mystical creatures. I’ve only seen five.”

“Seventeen adult dragon-level forces… This is going to be epic. I’ve started recording.”

“What? So, we’re talking about a 17-dragon raid streak? Insane.”

“If you’re not joining this, might as well quit Middle Earth.”

“Hello, guys! Do or die! Today, it’s ‘Surviving the Spirit Wave as a Level 100 Sorcerer’!”

While the rankers, marlat, paleos, and their relationships with the users were of no concern, these people were simply enjoying the moment.

“Maybe that’s just how it’s supposed to be?”

“Exactly. It’s us who are being too serious.”

“Ah… This is driving me mad. Rubini, what’s with the paleos?”

“They haven’t made a move yet. But all seventeen mystical creatures have gathered, and there are more paleos now than before. Considering Marlat’s bases, their force would be at least equal to that of four bases combined.”

“How about their strength? All combined, are we talking Toon-level?”

“Hard to say. If they really coordinate well, it might even surpass Toon-level.”

Rubini’s map could measure the ‘strength’ of individual monsters. When Toon appeared from Marlat’s source once, everyone was shocked by the size of that giant point on the map.

Currently, the sizes of the mystical creatures shown on her holographic map were by no means small. Fortunately, the paleos had mostly acted in small tribal-scale actions.

Kijung thought they wouldn’t have experience in this kind of large-scale group combat. But in a crisis, who knows what could happen. There’s no room for complacency.

(To be continued…)
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Kijung checked his friend list. Leeha’s location hadn’t changed at all.

“What about Leeha-ssi?”

“Still no change. No reply to my messages either.”

Having given up on persuasion, Shin Nara let out a sigh and approached where Kijung was standing.

However, both Shin Nara and Kijung didn’t think that Leeha’s presence would have changed anything in this situation.

“Leeha, what’s so important about that person that you keep waiting on them?”

Lark, who had somehow made his way right next to them, sneered incredulously.

“… Please leave while you’re ahead.”

“No, no, I’m genuinely curious. What is it? A Ranker? Some sort of king? You think everything will change when Leeha arrives?”

No one answered his question. Bobae quickly drew her bowstring, but it was Shin Nara who knocked down Bobae’s arrowhead.

“Why, Nara! Even if we’re just around the village, it’s still disadvantageous for you alone if things escalate.”

“Do you think I’ll lose? This- This is all because of him! It all started because of him!”

Bobae had suffered the most in this situation orchestrated by Kijung’s decision. It was clear Lark was not in her good books.

“Unbelievable. To help out and get scolded in return! Bobae-ssi? Didn’t we sync quite well when we went to obtain the ‘Divine Staff’? Do you know how much I’ve struggled these past few days? I might not have mentioned it, but clearing up hordes of monsters, at least three hundred of them. And because of this ‘contract’ with Shin Nara-ssi, I couldn’t even approach paleo without turning tail and dealing with them as such. ~ I’ve really been through a lot.”

“Shut your mouth. I seriously want to blow you away.”

“Hmm, why all this anger. Is there a reason I shouldn’t kill monsters?”

Lark tilted his head.

Bobae was about to explode again, but this time Kijung intervened.

“There’s no reason. You’re a knight of Minis after all.”


“Of course. I’m operating under directives from the Vatican themselves. Surely Master Kay didn’t receive something on his own that you didn’t?”

Lark shrugged nonchalantly.

Information regarding Holy Knight had already been relayed to Chiyou, and Lark intentionally not attacking paleo was indeed to place obstacles in Kijung’s path.

He skillfully used all restrictions and duties placed upon him to build a righteous and logical façade.

Nobody could object to his words under normal circumstances.

Kijung took a deep breath.

“There is.”

“Excuse me?”

“Kijung-ssi?”

“Kay!”

Bobae and Hyein exclaimed in surprise as they called out to Kijung.

Lark’s expression twisted momentarily. To expose himself in such a manner?

Too naive to think that mentioning his second class change quest would be taken lightly. Yet Kijung did not speak further, simply fixing his gaze upon Lark with silent eyes.

“Indeed. Someone must have tipped you off. What’s this?”

“What, what are you talking about?”

“That crumpled expression just now. You’re showing your hand without even a word. It sure doesn’t involve Lark-ssi. From what I know, there shouldn’t be anyone here spreading this matter around.”

It was the slight gap caused by Lark’s own quick thinking that revealed him!

Lark’s exceptional insight, at this moment, had tripped him up.

“I absolutely detest you. I really, really do. But I don’t think you’re a bad person. That’s why, even if I dislike you, I didn’t hate you. Perhaps that’s even more infuriating. However…”

Kijung unsheathed his sword. This was the first time the members of the Starlight Guild saw Kijung assert himself so strongly.


“My thoughts are beginning to change.”

“Are you claiming I’m a bad person?”

“Then prove it, if you dare. Tell us who you heard my story from.”

Kijung was aware of the existence of Shinobigumi.

He was well-acquainted with Chiyou’s tremendous information network.

There would be no leaks regarding this matter from Kijung’s immediate circle. So, through whom did Lark hear? Directly from the Pope? Unlikely.

There was only one route through which Lark could have learned.

Kijung had Lark cornered.

Lark shut his mouth.

“Thought so. You won’t speak, will you?”

“No, it’s simply because Master Kay, you already have an answer in mind. But remember one thing. I am by no means a bad person.”

Lark held Kijung’s gaze firmly.

Lark, examining Kijung’s eyes, responded, “As long as I am in Middle Earth, I am an eternal member of the Minis Kingdom’s capital defense Knights Order, ‘Virtue’. I swear on my sword, I do not do evil deeds.”

“Why would you do such a thing-”

“I simply…~ seek the most efficient way. Isn’t life all about that? Sure, a few individuals might suffer along the way, and some discussions will happen, but ultimately, it always results in something good for everyone~ That’s it.”

“Stop spouting nonsense about utilitarian ethics and the greater good.”

“Ah, how could a sparrow understand the heart of a phoenix? Do you even know why I don’t ascend to the rankers’ positions?”

“What, what did you say?”

Lark did not draw his sword until the very end. Instead, he turned his back to Kijung, who was standing with his sword drawn, and merely sighed. Kijung was momentarily taken aback by his final remark.

Where does his confidence come from? Not that he couldn’t become a ranker, but that he chose not to That was the tactic Lark had taken regarding the dilemma Kijung had placed him in.


What if the table of their conversation were completely flipped? The dilemma would disappear. In that brief moment when he lost the initiative, Kijung no longer had the disposition to detain Lark.

“Where are you going? Tell me who told you-”

“What’s the point of telling you, when you won’t understand? It’s just a waste of time. Until next time-”

“The paleos are moving! The mystical creatures have been spotted!”

Rubini’s shout interrupted the conversation between Kijung and Lark.

To those on the front lines of the defense, Rubini’s cry was unnerving, yet they didn’t even need to hear it. 『They’re coming.』

“Must we shed blood, natives of the New Continent.”

『If Juma City falls, we won’t have the power to kill Le.』

“Yes, I know. We must defend this place for justice’s sake.”

“All Hwangryong, prepare for battle—!”

Alexander, Bailephus, Pei Wu, and the members of the Hwangryong Guild prepared for battle.

“Alright, since it’s come to this, let’s go go!”

With the mystical creatures and paleos charging in, Shin Nara and Byulcho could not stand idly by.

“Kay. What do we do?”

“Kijung—”

“First… let’s get out there. We’ll join the battlefield but observe the situation as much as we can.”

After all, not drawing a sword would only mean death by their hands.

While everyone was busy preparing for war, Lark, having returned to the camp of the Virtue Knights, had a troubled expression.

“Let’s go.”

“What are you talking about, captain? What are we going to do if we go out there?”

Pung, who was drinking tea, was startled by Lark’s suggestion.

Due to the 『contract』 with Shin Nara, the Virtue Knights were unable to engage in hostilities with the paleos or the mystical creatures. And yet, he suggested going out amidst this war?

“We’re not heading to Juma City.”

“Huh? Then where?”

“…We’ve worked, so it’s time to collect our pay. But we don’t know if they’ll pay up, so we need to secure a guarantee, don’t we?”

“What does that mean-”

“Confirm the location, and prepare everyone to follow.”

Lark activated the crystal ball.

“Woooo! It’s starting!”

“Smash them, crush them!”

“These guys are nothing compared to the Monster Wave!”

The users’ faces were filled with joy. Although the difficulty was lower than before, the expected rewards were similar, hence their exhilaration.

“Charge— Ah?!”

At that moment, a blinding explosion of light dazzled the users’ eyes.

All charging users had to bow their heads.

“Stupid animals!”

“Let’s crush them all, transforming won’t help, they’re only around level 250! And there aren’t many of them!”

Morale didn’t drop.

The users were very familiar with the capabilities of the ‘enemies’ already identified.

“Fight, fight!”

“Charge!”

Of course, that action had its own logic. Not a single user gathered here had personally experienced the group actions of the paleos, and it was rare for anyone to even know that among the seventeen mystical creatures of the Western New Continent, there were those similar to humans.

“Iraku, you’re up first.”

“Understood, Harhei.”

One of the rushing mystical creatures paused, a wild boar with incredibly sharp spikes on its hind legs stood on its forelegs as if doing a handstand.

“Here we go!”

Koo-goo-woo—! The act of slamming its raised hind leg down was an ability of Iraku, the guardian deity of the boar paleos, capable of causing earthquakes.

“What? Wha-?!”

“Crazy, an earthquake!”

“All users who can fly, get in the air!”

The sudden shaking of the ground momentarily baffled the users. Now, the distance between humans and paleos was less than 100 feet. In a situation where they needed to gain momentum by speeding up, levitating to avoid the earthquake was not the right action, especially not in front of the coalition of mystical creatures.

“Pygmy. Order a volley fire.”

“Aim for those floating humans-!”

The bonobo paleos lifted their modified bolt-action rifles. Moving with them was ‘Hudid’, the guardian deity of the crane paleos.

“Fire!”

“Ha, truly, using the enemy’s weapon against them! Huuuuh-!”

With a short burst of gunfire, balls of fire shot out from Hudid’s beak.

“What? What’s that? Shield!”

“Fire- magic is- stronger than expected!”

Trying hastily to use defensive magic was futile against the might of Hudid, a crane mystical creature with the prowess of an Adult Dragon. Many of the floating users turned to ash and plummeted to the ground.

Before a full-on clash had even begun, two exchanges took place. Or rather, it was an action that couldn’t even be called an exchange. The paleos’ attacks precisely hit their mark as if predicting and inducing the humans’ next actions, and the humans, who had regarded the paleos as nothing more than uncivilized savages, were outright defeated.

“Is this all humans amount to? Well, that explains why they couldn’t even make such simple objects powerful.”

The being who had devised this entire strategy and rallied the mystical creatures scratched beneath its nose.

“Truly, it’s Harhei.”

“Having you here is reassuring.”

Harhei, the guardian deity of the bonobo paleos, a creature from the lava jungle who had disassembled Luger’s and others’ weapons, possessed intelligence beyond that of humans.

“Keehee, it’s my turn next. Hmmm… Get to work, work!”

A small mystical creature ran around the paleos who were charging at the front. An ugly-faced monkey encouraged the surroundings, causing the muscles of various animal-shaped paleos to bulge as if they were about to burst.

After the earthquake stopped and they began running on the ground again, the faces of the users at the forefront contorted.

“Sno, a mystical creature that enforces labor-”

“If Harhei’s power is involved-”

The paleos empowered by Harhei included gorillas and pigs. These giant paleos, capable of uprooting trees with a single blow, charged fiercely.

“Charge-! Charge- Ah! There’s no reason we wouldn’t become stronger!”

“Shields! Lift your shields-”

“Aaaargh!”

Like bowling balls knocking down pins, users were flung into the air from various places. However, they hadn’t used a skill to levitate; they were lifted into the air by the power of the paleos.

With the momentum of the assault fully retained and now bolstered by Harhei’s enhanced strength, the charging attack led to the deaths of dozens of users in a single strike. (To be continued…)
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“Wabong- Wabong-!”

“Red Goat! Slaughter the humans!”

“Black Crane, focus on Lord Harhei’s voice! Follow the commands of the tribal guardian spirit of the bonobo!”

Harhei was indeed smart.

He didn’t merely use the mystical creatures and paleos as they were but had the ability to combine them anew, strengthening the powers of the paleos with the mystical creatures.

Perhaps it was because this was akin to disassembling items and enhancing them anew.

For users who had never experienced this before, it was nothing short of the beginning of a terrible nightmare.

“Beee…009!”

The spirit of the white-furred buffalo paleos,

“The rain smothers the left flank of the battlefield. Considering launching an attack by exploiting the advantage of the giant spirit, the users nervously tensed up. However, the gigantic buffalo merely brushed past the users.

『Abnormal Status』 A sudden ailment?!”

『Poison』, 『Fear』, 『Confusion』, what on earth is this-”

“I have 『Hunger』, 『Dizziness』! Can’t even stand…”

That was sufficient.

For “Bi”, the buffalo handling 『Plague』, just like the Hudid handling fire.

“Wind! Summon the wind elementalists!”

“Someone block this wind!”

“Useless to even cast barriers! They’re being dragged out along with them!”

The right flank was no less daunting.


Rampaging in the right flank were the cyan-hued mountain dog mystical creatures, sanui. The giant dogs seemed to be chasing their tails in circles, but this action was soon generating a super cyclone.

“Incredible… If it goes on like this, it seems we don’t even need to protect them, Kijung-ssi?”

Watching the paleos overwhelm the humans from the beginning of the battle, Bobae was amazed.

However, Tale hid his astonishment behind a masked expression.

“No, on the contrary… I can’t comprehend even more the person named Lark who suppressed such creatures. An adult dragon’s power is to this extent?”

The Byulcho members, who hadn’t practically encountered the paleos in actual combat, couldn’t come up with a definitive answer.

“Hold on.”

“Um? Kijung-ssi?”

Watching the battle from the onset of the earthquake and marveling at it, Kijung’s expression suddenly hardened. The Byulcho members quickly noticed he had started whispering to someone.

“Who? Is it Leeha-ssi?”

“Wait! I’ll check something and be back! Keep watching as I’ve told you! And protect the mystical creatures first! While we can’t avoid the paleos’ deaths, we must save the mystical creatures at all costs!”

“Wait! Kijung-ssi! Where are you going!?”

The Byulcho joining the users’ force wasn’t to slaughter the paleos.

Rather, it was to protect the mystical creatures at the earliest if they were in danger.

This was Shin Nara’s idea.

‘The mystical creatures and paleos are like parent and child, right? And Lark targeted that point. So, during this battle, if only the mystical creatures can somehow survive… wouldn’t we be able to recreate the paleos again? It’s a bit weird to say ‘give birth’, but somehow make them, right?’

Shin Nara and the Sacred Knights were also lagging around Alexander for the same reason.

Alexander, Jiwon, and Faye had yet to make their move, knowing the moment the mystical creatures were in peril would be their time to act.

When Kijung started running back towards Juma City, their fears finally turned into reality.

“If damages increase further, it might be dangerous.”


『Hmm. Let’s move.』

“Wait a moment! Alexander! Lord Bailephus!”

『Let’s go, my fellow.』

『Judgment of Justice』

The tip of Alexander’s spear began to frost with light. He was not the only one who sensed the timing to engage. Immense amounts of black mana particles stormed into Lee Jiwon, who was adrift in the thunderclouds.

“I’ve been dying to show this off! Let’s catch a few mystical creatures and level up our skills too! 『Thunder Cloud』!”

With a crackling sound, when lightning seemed to jump from the dark clouds, a woman’s figure made entirely of electricity had already formed in front of Lee Jiwon’s eyes.

『Sky Step』, 『Rising Golden Dragon』!”

Pei Wu, who had also taken to the air, drew a giant dragon from his fingertips. The East Asian-style dragon, made of energy, was quickly launched towards the paleos.

“Ohhhh!”

“Here they come!”

“Damn beasts! Kill them all!”

With the fervent attacks from ranks 1, 2, and 4 unleashed, the morale at the front, which had been flagging, was greatly uplifted. The mystical creatures were also witnessing these attacks in their entirety.

Alexander displayed his power by virtually annihilating charging boar paleos with just the threat of his spear’s point, and Lee Jiwon, the thunder cloud, provided air support, causing flocks of black crane paleos to die of electrocution. The sight of a golden dragon summoning a typhoon to chase after and breathe fire on canine mystical creatures was also spectacular.

“So, they are the main force. Harhei, how far can you handle this?”

Yet, Harhei remained unfazed.

“If I can get close. I can kill even the winged ones.”

“Are you confident in your venom?”

“Shh, it’s not venom. Just need to sear off the scales and inject my membrane into its flesh. As long as it’s alive, it can’t help but die.”

A giant snake with a star pattern on its head laughed. It employed a tactic of extending its neck to inject its victim with its blood! Harhei, a creature from the same volcanic jungle as the snake paleos’ guardian deity, Kyoh, was discussing the original form of the skill used by Biyemi to attack – a blood toxin cannon, a destructive power far beyond ordinary “Status Condition: Poison.”


Harhei nodded as he listened to Kyoh’s explanation.

“I’ll peel off the scales.”

The paleos witnessing from their position noticed something as Harhei rummaged through his belongings. He had brought out a weapon that, although similar to ‘guns’ used by humans at the front, was quite different from anything they’d seen before.

“Is this of human made?”

“It’s not possible to make a second one, and the power is a bit lesser than the original… but it will be useful.”

This resembled the 『Cobalt Blue Python』. Unlike Luger’s Cobalt Blue Python and Leeha’s Black Bass had not been enhanced by the bonobo paleos. The enhancement of the weapon had been entirely the responsibility of the City Gazers’ Bottleneck.

But Luger? He had trusted the entire process, from analysis to enhancement, to the mystical creatures’ bonobo paleo, Harhei. It was perhaps inevitable that Harhei had a deeper knowledge of the 『Cobalt Blue Python』 than of 『Black Bass』.

“Then let’s get ready.”

“Don’t worry, we can fire from here too.”

Kyoh, with its long snake body, tensed like a coiled spring.

Harhei aimed his weapon, similar to Luger’s gun, at Bailephus. Despite its rapid movements, he aimed with calm precision, suggesting that hitting it would not be difficult. Although Harhei’s attack was not expected to cause significant damage, if he could replicate even 80% of the 『Cobalt Blue Python』s destructive power, stripping away Bailephus’ dragon scales should pose no problem. In that brief moment, when the dragon’s naked flesh was exposed, Kyoh’s body would surge forth toward that small target, and if Alexander and Bailephus failed to evade it…

Like the mark left by Biyemi, even the world’s Ancient-class dragons might find it difficult to guarantee survival. The moment Harhei pulled the trigger, a massive gunshot roared.

Woosh—! 『Huh?! What is this?』 The perpetual barrier surrounding Bailephus vibrated. The colossal body of the advancing Ancient-class dragon staggered.

“What kind of attack was that?”

Even Alexander, who had climbed atop Bailephus, had to hastily regain his balance. It was a bullet charged with enough destructive power to halt the dragon’s assault with a single strike. However, their frowns weren’t due to the barrier-blocked attack. It was because they saw the name of the one who had launched the attack.

“Ha Leeha?”

『Did Leeha attack me?』 The system notification informed Alexander that ‘Leeha’ was the assailant who had carried out the preemptive strike. Without needing to search for Leeha, he had already revealed himself, shouting towards Alexander.

“Alexander! Stop!”

『Leeha!』 As the dragon paused in confusion, a gigantic iron ball whizzed past the spot Bailephus was attempting to cross, making a whooshing sound. 『Gasp!』 Perhaps this was what he intended to communicate. Harhei’s delayed shot missed, slicing through thin air. The doubts and anger Alexander and Bailephus had towards Leeha evaporated in an instant. Yet, Leeha did not stop there. The reason Leeha had shot Bailephus was to dodge Harhei’s attack while simultaneously making his presence known. And at this moment, there was more than just Alexander that Leeha needed to address. A single shot towards the distant Pei Wu’s Oriental dragon, and another towards the Thunder Cloud who had separated from Lee Jiwon in the thunderclouds! Indeed, Leeha knew that a notification was a more definite way of communicating than words. More convincing than telling them to stop, the eyes of Pei Wu and Lee Jiwon were drawn towards Leeha. 『Everyone stop—-!』 Blaring loudly! First, he captured their attention, then stated his case. Leeha’s voice magnified by sound magic, along with the gunshot amplified similarly, reverberated across the battlefield. Was it because the rankers had ceased their battle, or had Blaugrunn, who had closely approached Leeha’s resolution, amplified the sound? Or was it the sheer terror that the incredible gunshot might be aimed at their heads next? The bloodshed between the users and the paleos had halted in an instant. Leeha’s form began to float mid-air in the center of the battlefield. Beside him, still in human form, was Blaugrunn, presenting no extraordinary menace or fear. Yet, the fact that the floating person was ‘Leeha’ could clearly be discerned. And who was Leeha? Above all, everyone present knew what he had accomplished just days before. 『Users and mystical creatures, everyone please stop. If anyone wishes to continue fighting from this point, know that I’ll be your opponent regardless of the side.』 『The Slayer of Toon』 When a user who had accomplished what no one else could floated in the air and spoke those words, it was natural for no one to dare move. 『Feel free to test me. No matter where you hide, when you next show yourself, you’ll die without even seeing me. You can’t hide from me.』 Leeha’s voice was calm. Yet, without raising his tone, it didn’t mean he was indifferent. It was a deep voice filled with barely contained rage, one that made it hard for the ordinary users to even lift their feet. The mystical creatures felt the same way. The general paleos were suppressed by Leeha’s momentum and couldn’t move, and the mystical creatures didn’t dare because the target was ‘Leeha’. Truly, all fighting had fully ceased once Alexander confirmed this serenity.

“What are you doing, Leeha?”

“What am I doing? I should be asking you that. Are you fighting to throw away everything we’ve achieved in the New Continent, Alexander? Elder Bailephus?”

『Are you trying to teach me?』 “Yes, I’m educating you. The Vatican might not say much if it involves paleos and mystical creatures, since what humans truly want is to organize the magical realm. If Bluebeard and the Demon King’s Fragments were to be a hindrance in exterminating paleos, the Vatican wouldn’t give any different orders either.”

(To be continued…)
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Why Minis’ Knights Faced Little Resistance in Subduing paleo

The main reason why Minis’ knights were not significantly hindered in their efforts to subdue paleo was due to the official stance of the Ezwen Theocracy and the Papacy, which chose not to get involved with paleo matters. The paleo were considered mere natives of the Erika continent.

From the perspective of the Lope continent, they were neither allies nor enemies, a neutral viewpoint. As the primary objective of coming to the Erika continent was to chase down and annihilate the demon lord’s army, the underlying principle was to ‘utilize everything’ if necessary. Implicitly, earning achievements through subjugation was also recognized as one of the methods—akin to waging a religious war.

Caring about coexistence with the natives while capturing the demon lord’s army? Middle Earth would never endorse such an approach. All these are merely forks in the road redefined by ‘the choices of the players.’

“No matter how often encounters between civilizations lead to war, isn’t this way too severe!”

『They attacked us first.』 “But! Does it make any sense to start with a battle without any discussion?”

『… Even if you are Ha Leeha, if you insult me-』

“Ha… Please, stop saying things unbecoming of an Ancient.”

Ha Leeha raised his voice even louder.

“When should insults be thrown if not now! Just think! If the majority of the human forces on the new continent and the paleos fight with all their might!”

Leeha chose not to speak any further.

‘Who stands to benefit! How and where will this information leak!’

He did not voice these thoughts. Revealing it was akin to directly informing the spy among humans.

While it was an open secret among the top players, there was no need to divulge such information to mid and low-level players yet, as it could potentially harm the unity among players.

Leeha, at some point, began to consider himself as leading the players of Middle Earth.

Fortunately, it turned out Bailephus was indeed an Ancient-class dragon.

“Do… you have evidence?”

“We will find it soon. So please wait a moment.”

Leeha then turned his attention away from Alexander and Bailephus.


Cobalt Blue Python and creatures wielding similar weapons like the bonobo paleo mystical creature, Koba, the Red Goat paleo mystical creature, aibex, and the Hudid Crane paleo mystical creature, Hudid, gathered around.

Along with Blaugrunn, Leeha moved towards that location in the air.

Nara: Wait, just a minute! Leeha-ssi! If you go there-”

Leeha: It’s alright, Nara-ssi.

Nara: How can you say it’s alright! The mystical creatures might attack…”

Leeha: Maybe… It should be okay if it’s me. Leeha had faith. The Middle Earth system, at the very least, does not lie, and those small notification windows that once appeared before his eyes would surely provide strength at this moment.

※

“Ha Leeha.”

“Dear mystical creatures, it’s been a while.”

Even as they crossed through the paleo ranks, they did not attack Leeha.

Leeha bowed his head as he looked at the mystical creatures.

“Is this Ha Leeha?”

“The human who shed blood for us? Such a small human?”

“That one riding the dragon seems stronger though, hmmm”

“Everyone quiet. Ha Leeha is different from other humans. If anyone insults him, our clan of Black Cranes will not tolerate it.”

“The Red Goats feel the same. Everyone should respect him.”

Known and unknown mystical creatures quarreled among one another. At least the mystical creatures he had directly helped, Hudid and Aibex, showed complete trust in Leeha. And leading those mystical creatures was, as expected, the bonobo paleo’s mystical creature, Harhei.

“You are the only human among those cursed who has earned our trust. However, even at your request, we cannot turn back from here.”

As expected, Leeha silently rejoiced.

Someday, when he aimed to earn the 『Subjugation』 achievement by targeting the knights, the notification window had appeared, 『A trust relationship with all mystical creatures of the Erika new continent has been established』, thanks to that.


“I understand, your anger… It would be too selfish to pretend none of this ever happened.”

“What then? What can you do? You’re no different from a regular human in human society, without special authority. I know that.”

Meaning, the trust relationship extends only to him, and even that is limited to not initiating preemptive strikes in inter-species conflicts. Leeha thought this was enough. However, the problem was that persuading them with words would not be easy, given that Koba, who knew humans well, was around.

“No attacks on the paleos. We will officially strive to establish a relationship where we can coexist with the paleos as much as possible.”

“You came all this way to say you’ll try? Such vague words.”

“Indeed. You wouldn’t believe me if I didn’t show any effort. But what can I really promise? There’s hardly anything except for one thing.”

Leeha swallowed. Much of what he had thought on his way here had already been consumed by his present reality. There was 『trust building』. If that exists, then surely the opposite must as well. It’s inevitable. Perhaps if we pinpoint the root cause of the paleos’ anger towards humans and eliminate it.

“I’ll capture it for you. The root of evil, I will capture that bastard and hand it over to you.”

“Lark!”

“You mean you’ll bring that damned one here!”

“Where is he hiding in this battlefield? I don’t care what it takes as long as I can get rid of his flesh!”

The mystical creatures’ eyes bulged in surprise. Seeing them go wild after being calm up until now convinced Leeha.

“Will you leave if I do so?”

“… If you bring Lark within 2 hours, then we’ll pause to hear you out.”

Koba glanced over the mystical creatures behind him. To Leeha, it seemed like there would be no dissent. If Lark was captured, everything would be resolved.

“Understood. Let’s go to where Alexander is, Blaugrunn-ssi.”

Blaugrunn lifted Leeha into the air again. While Leeha was negotiating with the mystical creatures, the users were not fighting the paleos. Partly due to the suddenly cooled atmosphere, but mainly because Alexander, the number 1 ranked, had not taken any action. Soon, near Alexander were Lee Jiwon, Pei Wu, Shin Nara, the Sacred Knights, and the members of Byulcho, except for Kijung.

“What happened?”

“They’re going back?”

“Yes, under the condition that we bring Lark within 2 hours. He’s the cause of their anger.”


Leeha spoke relatively lightly, but the expressions of those listening were anything but bright.

“Two hours? Lark is supposed to be in Juma City, how are we supposed to catch him within two hours?”

If he were in the village, any hostile action would immediately be recognized, and the police force would be dispatched. The reason Juma City has maintained itself amidst constant small and large conflicts is thanks to the police force dispatched from four countries. Moreover, if it’s not killing but capturing, the difficulty increases even more. It was natural for Shin Nara to worry.

“It’s okay.”

Yet, Leeha smiled.

“Really?”

“Yes, Lark is-”

“Hyung! Hyung!”

“-Ah, he’s coming right there. So, I ask you all. Please, stop the war for just two hours.”

Kijung’s voice interrupted from somewhere. Leeha immediately activated the crystal ball.

“… Ignoring Leeha-nim’s request is not an option, but keeping the excited users in check for two hours won’t be easy.”

“Geonseop! Was that true? What you said earlier, about what this war has caused- ahem, that- what was it?”

“I don’t know. Leeha will shed light on it now. But isn’t the possibility enough?”

“Hmm… If hyung suspects it, I can trust it.”

Pei Wu, Lee Jiwon, and Alexander pondered. Perhaps they felt guilty for underestimating the conflict with the paleos.

“Truth isn’t what’s needed to calm the masses. It’s command and power. Bailephus, to the air.”

『Understood.』

Flap- Flap-!

As Alexander ascended into the air and Jiwon craned her neck, Shin Nara and Bobae grumbled, “If only you had listened to us sooner, right?”

“It’s a relief you understand now, but… where did Kijung go? Disappeared without a word.”

Their curiosity was resolved by Hyein.

At this moment, the person most clearly understanding the situation suggested, “That place.”

“That place?”

“Divine Staff.”

At that moment, Leeha, Kijung, and Blaugrunn arrived at the Divine Staff. Lark and the Virtue Knights had already been there since ‘the moment the battle between paleo and the users began’, with a considerable number of corpses already piled up.

“What’s this?”

“Puff, puff, damn, you’re late.”

However, the atmosphere was far from what Leeha had imagined. Several hours had passed since the battle between the users and paleo began, but what exactly was going on? Why were a significant number of the Virtue Knights dead? And who were those that Lark was pointing his sword at?

Ding- Ding- Ding-

A periodic alarm rang in Leeha’s head.

It was a signal pattern he had never heard before while playing Middle Earth.

Kijung groaned.

“Really… Bluebeard… One of the Demon Lord’s fragments, Bluebeard, was there.

Leeha clenched his teeth.

As feared, it had happened.

Humans and paleo engaging in battle?

Excluding the minimal surveillance force at the Divine Staff, everyone else must be deployed near Juma City!

Which forces would move if they knew the Divine Staff was lightly guarded?

“Bluebeard!”

With Chiyou there, it was inevitable that the information would reach them, and indeed, Bluebeard had revealed himself at the Divine Staff.

“Ho ho, who do we have here? Isn’t this Ha Leeha! Chiyou! What’s happening!?”

It wasn’t a small force.

Including Chiyou, Igor, Czar, Faust, and his undead, it was a considerable force.

Prea was not seen, but there were roughly a hundred users beside Bluebeard. Both Leeha and Kijung did not recognize them but could guess who they might be.

“Yamato…”

Chiyou’s hidden force, Yamato. They must be part of them.

“I’m very sorry, Count. I’ve just heard the news – tales from the battlefield have just come in.”

“No, no, no. That’s very good! If I can get rid of that dung fly and Ha Leeha all at once and destroy the Divine Staff, it’s killing three birds with one stone!”

“And… that one beside…”

Chiyou whispered something into Bluebeard’s ear.

Bluebeard’s already grim face twisted even more.

“Is that so? The one supposed to be bestowed the title of Holy Knight is that guy? Hahahaha! What a day! The dead have finally done something meaningful. Finally, that useless dinosaur has fulfilled his calling with his death!”

Bluebeard’s demeanor differed from usual. Gone was the old man who chuckled wickedly or mocked in a calm tone.

Drooling, his eyes bloodshot with rage, Bluebeard glared at Ha Leeha, embodying madness itself.

“Hey, Ha Leeha? How much hate are you gathering around, for this old man to suddenly go senile?”

“That’s my line. Lark, what are you doing here? I came after hearing you headed to the Divine Staff-”

“Me too, I’m lost. They say entering and exiting the bathroom is different, seems it’s the same for a Demon Lord’s Fragment. Maybe the collateral was too big. Hah!”

“What? What are you talking about?”
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Leeha had not predicted this. It was surprising enough that Bluebeard had moved faster than expected, but to find Lark and the Virtue Knights already here and fighting Bluebeard?

“Weren’t they on the same side? Or, perhaps they were but had a falling out?”

This had been Leeha’s lingering doubt.

Lark’s analytical ability to instantly devise a strategy for “Subjugation”, his insight to read the situation, his eloquence in handling human psychology, and his mysterious, unknown abilities. He possessed everything. It was impossible for Lark not to have foreseen Bluebeard’s existence and their moves.

Yet, why was he deliberately causing trouble? Leeha’s conclusion was ‘because he was on the same side as Bluebeard.’

But the current situation—’

Lark and the Virtue Knights, with swords drawn against Bluebeard. And facing them, the demonic army, exuding a ferocious aura.

Leeha and Kijung exchanged looks. The situation was peculiar, but they had no time left to ponder.

“Kyohoho, why just stand and watch! Kill them all, including that human wielding the rainbow sword!”

Understood!

Following Bluebeard’s command, the demonic army launched their assault.

“Kakaka! Though the sword is a bit small for my taste, I’ll gladly accept it!”

“I look forward to making a Death Knight from your corpse.”

The onslaught from Igor with his saw-blade sword and the lightning-fast necromancy skills from Faust!

The attack from the third and ninth-ranked was so swift that even the Virtue Knights guarding Lark could not react.

*Groan-”

Igor’s blade was formidable.

Even when trying to counter, Lark’s body had to forcibly move due to Igor’s roguish sword technique, as if grasping and pulling the blade itself. And it was towards that very spot, that Faust’s skill was aimed.

“Damn, not this again. I’ll be in danger if it hits me this time-”


Lark, failing to meet the conditions for his skill, frowned.

Being a hidden powerhouse and ending up bloodied was one of the reasons.

The collaborative attack between Igor and Faust, now part of the demonic army, had been perfected over several encounters and was unimaginably effective.

“Kakaka! Die!”

Lark would have died.

If not for Leeha and Kijung.

“『Guardian’s Seal』!”

Kijung used his skill towards the bleeding Lark.

Woosh…!

At the same time, Faust’s necromancy skill, which was burrowing into his side, was crushed and dissipated.

Lark’s frown turned to shock.

Narrowly disengaging his sword from Igor’s blade, Lark leaped back to where the Virtue Knights were and looked back.

“Master Kay?”

“Damn! Don’t look at me with those eyes! If you die, it’s trouble for Leeha and me.”

Kijung wasn’t wrong. If Lark were to die here in an ambush?

Leeha’s mission of capturing Lark and delivering him to the mystical creatures within two hours would be utterly ruined.

The alliance between humans and paleos would once again erupt into bloody conflict.

“… It’s the first time I’ve thought I might fall for a guy.”

“Stop, stop with the bad jokes! I’ll leave the offensive skills to you!”

Kijung and Lark exchanged looks. Having been targeted by the Guardian’s Seal, Lark now had all related skill information displayed via the system notification.


Lark had a good understanding of Kijung.

And Kijung also knew quite a bit about Lark.

Meaning, they both knew too well how to use the current situation to their advantage.

When a defensive specialist and an offensive specialist blend their strengths.

What kind of synergy effect would result?

Kijung, having stepped forward to protect Lark, made instinctively the best move.

Leeha immediately caught on to the situation.

“Nice, Kijung! You’ve got it! Let’s go! 『Soul Link』, Jellypong 『Combat Mode: Agility』 and Blaugrunn-ssi!”

“Yes!”

“I permit you to return to your original form. Don’t die.”

“Heh, do you think I was just fooling around while Leeha-ssi was away?”!!

Red and turquoise explosions erupted. This place isn’t the Eastern part of the New Continent.

Leeha seems to be using their skills without any restrictions.

Lark is watching, but it won’t be long before they can no longer keep hidden the fact that Blaugrunn is a dragon.

Above all, sparing any strength against Bluebeard could lead to everything falling apart before it even starts.

『Charge passionately!』

Kaaaaaahhhhhhhhhhhhh-!

Grrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr-ㅡ-!

『Hallucination: Bahamut』.”

The summoning of Bahamut’s illusion! Of course, Leeha knew it would have no effect.


Bluebeard wouldn’t be deceived by it, and given the past experiences of Faust and others with hallucination, it would be hard to see them even briefly thrown off.

But it had another effect. Leeha had only one reason for using the skill. If it didn’t work, there wasn’t a chance of victory in this battle, in Leeha’s opinion.

After all, killing Bluebeard is a completely different dimension from killing anyone else.

“But let’s try! Let’s go! 『Multi-Warhead shot』!”

Thuuuuuuuum- !!

In an instant, forty bullets were shot.

As soon as Leeha appeared, Chiyou was using 『Dance of the Socius』!

And apart from Bluebeard, who deflected the bullets with a staff, there was no one here who could perfectly block Leeha’s attack.

“Despite that…”

Leeha bit his lip. The main target Leeha had chosen was still considered a hidden force: the Yamato group.

Of the corpses transformed into light by Leeha’s perfect attack, only about ten were from this group.

Their capabilities were instantly recognizable as surpassing those of the Shinobigumi. Many aspects of agility had been invested in their movement speed, making their movements impressively fast to Leeha.

“Ha, if Kidd were here, it would’ve made for an exciting match.”

Leeha threw out a laugh pretending to be hearty, but couldn’t hide the bitterness inside.

Leeha quickly changed their stance. When could Kidd join in, if at all? What about the others? Above all, Leeha themself didn’t have the luxury to be leisurely.

The users under the command of the Demon King, who had relatively well handled Leeha’s preemptive strike, were gritting their teeth and rushing in.

“Damn it, Kijung! And”

“Well, I think I know what you want to say, but since I was the one who had an appointment with that moldy old man, Leeha-ssi jumping in late is on you! I’ll do what I have to, so don’t interrupt! Though I won’t turn down help if you insist!”

Before Leeha could finish, Lark shouted at them first.

It was a statement absurd enough to make one laugh from the listener’s perspective.

His outcry, whether in terms of expression or content, was far from proper.

But conversely, it also showed Lark’s confidence.

Even in such a situation, joking and being at ease was considered a strength unique to Kijung and Leeha. Wanting to kill each other was certainly true.

“Anyway, talking like a bird…”

But in this moment, having someone reliable in terms of ability eased Leeha’s burden a bit.

The enemy of my enemy is my friend, right?

With a greater common enemy before them, Leeha had no intention of ignoring Lark.

“Alright then, Kijung, I’ll leave Igor, Faust, and their lot to you and that guy Lark!”

“Leave it to me!”

Only after entrusting the task of dealing with Igor, Czar, Faust, and his undead legion to them, was Leeha able to focus more on his own task.

But the enemies were no easy opponents.

The leader of the Shinobigumi, and Leeha’s long-standing nemesis, knew best how to oppose Leeha.

“Just kill Leeha! Scatter!”

Under Chiyou’s direct command, the tactic of the Yamato was flawless.

Whether facing Lark or doing anything else, their primary target was ‘Leeha’.

Thanks to the high-ranking fire spirit Ignis, the young boy became a super-fire bear along with Jellypong and Blaugrunn, moving in all directions almost instantly without having to fight them directly, aiming to capture Leeha alone!

Their movements, dispersing in various directions instantly, were truly exceptional. However, they made a clear mistake.

Though they scattered in all directions, ultimately, their target was still Leeha!

From Leeha’s perspective, it looked like enemies were converging on them from all directions, but to a third party observer, the movements were all too predictable, almost as if about ninety Yamato warriors had spilled towards them from three different directions. The Leeha squad had honed their optimal pathfinding for protecting their master through countless land and aerial battles, solidifying their tactics as instinctual.

“Koma! Jellypong! Blaugrunn-ssi! Block them!”

With a roaring sound, Koma along with Jellypong and Blaugrunn rapidly intercepted each group they were assined to.

“Look out, a bear is chasing us!”

“Push them back! How tough can they be!”

“Got it. Explosive Orb!”

One of the Yamato members flicked a finger, triggering an explosion that enveloped Koma in flames.

“Nice job! Now, let me split his belly—what the?”

Before the explosion subsided, a swordsman rushed towards where Koma had been, only to be halted by a gigantic shadow emerging from the flames.

With a fierce roar, Koma extended its claws, piercing the side of the great sword.

The claws not only punctured the sword, turning defense into an offensive move, but also quickly overpowered the swordsman, who lost his weapon and became incapacitated. In a brief moment of confusion, Koma grabbed the swordsman’s head and effortlessly tore it off.

As the lifeless body collapsed like a beheaded puppet, another Yamato member armed with dual swords charged forward.

“Damn it! Start with the limbs! This guy’s defense is insane!”

But as one of the dual swordsmen from the left group swung his weapons, Koma did not evade. Instead, allowing his forearm to be sliced, stopping the blade mid-cut in a strategic move to restrict his opponent’s actions. Despite the swordsman’s fame as a dual-wielding expert, he could not fully cleave through Koma’s flesh, let alone muscle, astonished that merely muscle contraction could trap his blades.

Facing the bear-like creature, the renowned swordsman of Yamato found a cunning smile on Koma’s face.

Even with both arms sealed, beasts like him had one more weapon at their disposal than humans.

With a ferocious roar, Koma’s jaws clamped down on the dual-sword user’s neck.

Even for a human with a comparatively thick neck, it seemed to pose no challenge for a bear, biting through it with ease.

As the life drained out of him, his body turned into a lifeless shade.

“Agh… wha?”

Not even the formidable monsters led by Toon could stand a chance against Koma.

Yamato was known for its strength, and users like “Great Sword Storm”,

“Master of Dual Swords”, and “Snot Bomb” who first attacked, despite their renown, were effortlessly conquered. Their failure stemmed not from a lack of full commitment in their attacks against these obstacles but from the overwhelming might of Koma and its accompanying creatures.

“What’s with this slime-like thing?”

『Myongmyong?』

While Koma decimated a group of Yamato forces, Jellypong pursued another group on the right. From its short slime-like body, grotesquely stretched hundreds of tendrils, squirming nauseatingly.
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“At first glance, it seems to have multiple limbs and a decent speed but- cut.”

Four tentacles burrowed into one of the Yamato users.

“What the!?”

“Insane. Did the ‘Warden of Bobae’ just die?”

He was an outsider user, as renowned as any martial artist or mage, yet he couldn’t even understand what attack had killed him.

『Mong! Myongmyong!』

“Don’t underestimate us! This is no ordinary slime!”

“Defense skill! Start with a barrier! 『Great Shield』!”

Whoosh, an emerald barrier covered them.

They continued to move swiftly, but Jellypong maintained a constant distance, never falling behind.

『Myongmyong! Myooong~!』

Kaang! Kaangkaang!

Kakakakakang–!

And then, hundreds of tentacles began to strike the barrier. The shield started to crack instantly, making a shattering sound.

“The shield, it’s cracking!”

“Insane! No way! Including physical defense, it should withstand cumulative damage up to 30,000-”

Before the sentence was even finished, with a massive rupture, their shield shattered into pieces.

Panic-stricken, Yamato’s users either sliced through Jellypong’s tentacles or dodged them, but the number of tentacles stretching out from Jellypong’s body easily exceeded a hundred.

Avoiding all of them was impossible.


“If it can only withstand 30,000 in cumulative damage, it’s only natural it would break.”

Amid the chaos and screams, this is what Leeha, fighting the Yamato members, last comprehended.

『Legendary Meta-Water Spirit: ‘Jellypong’ (Agility Type)』

Attack Power: (User’s Strength * 50%) + Agility + (Intelligence * 30%)

Type: Close-to-Mid Range

Effect: When accompanying in the area, increases user’s health by 10%.

Requirement: Achievement 『The one who Revived Source of the Sea』

Description: A water spirit containing the essence of a sea god, not just any water spirit, but born from the dwelling of a deity, including the essence of a sea god. Whatever the user desires, the Meta-Water Spirit will grant it.

‘My agility right now is through the roof.’

Each of the tentacles stretching from Jellypong inflicted a minimum damage of around 4,300.

A mere 30,000 in cumulative damage wouldn’t even withstand ten strikes from these tentacles.

Considering the number of tentacles and their speed of attack that sprouted from the body of Jellypong?

‘Thinking that a mere barrier could stop Jellypong was wishful thinking.’

“Attack the core! It’s not the tentacles that are the problem!”

“Split that slime’s body!『Thrust Pierce』!”

Screeeeech-!

Someone shouted in the midst of chaos, aiming for the body of Jellypong.

‘Agility type’ not being ‘Strength type’, its attack might be high but its health is inevitably low.

『Well, that’s what I am here for.

『Absolute Barrier』』–!


Kaaaaang…!

What awaited Yamato users’ vengeful stabbing was the breaking of their spear tips.

“Uh…what?”

『Mong! Myongmyong!』

“Nice, Blaugrunn-ssi!”

Another group from Yamato, Blaugrunn, who was in charge of the center, was observing the state of the little ones to the left and Jellypong to the right, assisting them with spells like buffs and shields.

If previously he felt like a mere warrior performing in battles, now, after journeying with him, he had gained a bit of a ‘commander’s’ perspective.

『It’s difficult if you praise me like this.

『Electric Spark』』

Every time Blaugrunn spread his fingers, a spark along with a small explosion made the hair of Yamato’s members stand on end.

The skill didn’t consume much mana, allowing him to cast it continuously on all visible Yamato members. A skill that barely did any damage nor caused any special 『Status Effects』? Plus, the skill’s casting gesture was just a finger flick?

“Ugh?”

“It’s a common belief that a dragon’s magic is weak! Just watch out for physical attacks!”

It was only natural for the people of Yamato to think this way. As he watched the humans charge at him, Blaugrunn sighed deeply.

『How foolish they all are.

『Giga Electric』』

The less damage a skill appears to do, the more caution it warrants.

Especially if such a skill doesn’t trigger any special status ailment notifications.

『『Chain Lightning』』

This likely served as a preparation for a subsequent skill combo.


When the turquoise light entering Blaugrunn’s body burst out explosively, the members of Yamato targeting the central area had already vanished without a trace.

Thirty of their number had ‘fully detonated’, leaving not even a milky corpse behind. This act, including the exploits of a youngster and Jellypong’s surprise attack, left a lasting impression on several players, including Leeha.

“How can this be?

“A magic attack, not even a breath attack, but simply Chain Lightning?”

『To dismiss it as merely a magic attack. How arrogant, necromancer. But then again, you wouldn’t understand the intricacy of guiding electricity exits and the explosive increase in current flow.』

The explosive magical power displayed by Blaugrunn garnered attention, even from Igor and Faust, overshadowing all other activities by the 『Leeha Squad』 with its impact.

“…” The reasons why people champion Leeha became somewhat clearer, at least at this moment. Even Lark couldn’t help but remain speechless in the face of Blaugrunn’s power.

Clap, clap, clap…

The time it took for Yamato’s forces, originally over a hundred strong, to decrease to around fifty was incredibly short.

Naturally, they couldn’t just stand by and watch.

“Ha ha ha… Yes, that’s Leeha for you. Always keeping things interesting. Summoning Bahamut’s apparition as a distraction? Uncharacteristic of you. Not exactly an insignificant feat to have decapitated Toon’s head with such tactics.”

By then, the illusion of Bahamut had already vanished.

Keeping a distance from Bluebeard while adopting a stance that was both threatening and poised for attack was a futile effort against Lea.

Upon seeing Bluebeard emerge, clapping his hands, Leeha swallowed dryly. The forces of Yamato might be formidable, but not when compared to himself.

However, Bluebeard appeared more imposing than any foe he had encountered before.

“Koma! Jellypong! Come back! Blaugrunn-ssi as well!”

Ultimately, in this battle, the critical issue was how to counter Bluebeard. The foot soldiers were of no consequence.

The tip of Le’s staff no longer touched the ground.

At the staff’s end, directed towards the sky, dark energy sharply surged.

“It’s too trivial to call it revenge for Toon. But, to not avenge would be a blow to my pride. Do you understand what I mean?”

“You’re joking. I’m done with seeing that detestable face. Toon died in the same disgrace.”

Bluebeard’s brow twitched slightly. Despite always cursing Toon, Leeha seemed to faintly understand the depth of Toon’s regard for him.

Leeha lifted Black Bass. Before him stood Koma, Blaugrunn, and Jellypong, all blocking his way. Even with Bluebeard stepping forward, the forces of Yamato did nothing but stare blankly.

Chiyou was thorough, detouring Yamato’s forces to block any possible retreat for Leeha.

Yet, Leeha didn’t pay them any mind.

Unless Chiyou herself made a move, he knew their attacks posed no significant threat.

Nor were they the only concern.

Even Lark and Kijung, positioned far to the left from the 『Divine Staff』, were preoccupied.

Igor and the Czar Guild alongside Faust and his undead legion posed a threat that was not only numerically superior but also qualitatively unmatched.

The clamor of their struggle, filled with shouts and the casting of skills, filled the air. Leeha glanced around, then fixated his gaze back on Bluebeard.

“How should I face him?”

Huuu-…

Leeha steadied his breathing.

With each step that Bluebeard took closer, the question loomed: Will the attack work?

‘Thinking of hitting with the first shot is greedy. He’ll block it anyway, just like last time… Targeting the disarmament of the weapon is the solution.’

Making Bluebeard’s staff unusable was essential. Bluebeard had never caught one of his bullets ‘by hand’ before. Meaning, without the staff, Bluebeard might be able to dodge but not block the attacks.

But how could he ensure the desired outcome?

Bluebeard was not likely to just stand still.

『Leeha, Bluebeard is approaching.』

『Boom!』

“Could the 『Leeha Squad』, capable of taking on over a hundred Yamatos, have struggled against Bluebeard?

Even in his dragon form, Blaugrunn was visibly tense.

Facing Bluebeard, whom even Ancient-class dragons would concede a step to, it was natural for Blaugrunn, who was still but a Juvenile-class dragon, to be anxious.

『Leeha?』

Blaugrunn’s call went unanswered.

The trail of Bluebeard, visible between the massive forms of the 『Leeha Squad』. How should one confront such a foe?

Leeha knew that the moment to restrain Bluebeard’s movements was when he aimed at him. Hastily pulling the trigger would instantly unravel the taut string of tension, launching him forward like an arrow shot.

“A headbutt from Blaugrunn could buy us one turn. But if we do that… it could be fatal.”

It was the last resort. Neither Blaugrunn’s magic nor his physical prowess alone would suffice to fend off Bluebeard.

Above all, it wasn’t wise to make beings, not players, who are almost akin to NPCs, confront Le directly when they have just one life to live.’So, what’s the next step?

How could we make Bluebeard block with his staff? Leeha took a deep breath. It wasn’t a perfect plan. But the start of every operation begins only once the trigger is pulled.

“Hoaahhh!”

Before the gunshot could echo, Bluebeard had raised his staff. However, his face twisted grotesquely soon after.

Thwack!

The bullet tore through the side of the target.

“Bahhh!”

“Not yet, once more!”

Before the echo of the gunshot faded, Leeha quickly pulled the bolt again. Bluebeard was still glaring at Leeha with a distorted face.

It was because he felt something different about Leeha’s actions.

Pulling the bolt, aiming the front – all was usual up to that point.

But the moment of pulling the trigger? The sudden twist and throw of the Black Bass as if flinging it far away!

“……

‘I’ve seen such an attack before.’”

The gunfire covered the grove of Bluebeard.

From somewhere, another scream burst out.

But the short scream disappeared in an instant, followed by massive confusion.

“Igor! Igor!”

“Everyone, protect Igor! Surround him!”

“It’s, too late! Igor’s already—”

“What? What’s this?”

Leeha didn’t even glance at the site of sudden chaos.

He didn’t need to look to know the outcome through the system notification popping up before him.

『Achievement: Ranker Hunt (B+) – 3rd Place, “Agropni Igor”』

『Effect not applied since the achievement is already acquired.』

“Igor is dead! Virtue Knights, fall back to defend against Faust! Kijung, Lark! You two, hurry to Bluebeard!”

How should one confront Bluebeard? Leeha’s answer was to utilize reinforcements.

“It would have been impossible before.”

Killing Igor to disrupt the balance?

Had Leeha turned even slightly, Bluebeard would have instantly discerned his intent.

Then, he wouldn’t have moved in such a tensely charged state.”

But not now!”

『Beginner’s Curve Shot (B)』
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It was possible thanks to Elizabeth’s special training and the new skill acquired from it: the Curve Shot. Despite being a single-use skill, it consumed a whopping 900 mana, limiting its use to just two shots even with a full pool of 2,430 mana. Fortunately, it had no cooldown time. The bullet’s unpredictable trajectory was something no one, not even the renowned Igor, could anticipate, leaving him no choice but to expose his flank. It was this uncertainty that led to his demise by two shots. Had Igor not been wary of Leeha at all, he might have been taken down in a single shot.

“Phew! Seriously! Where did you learn something like this, hyung?!”

Despite initially reluctant to ask, this curiosity inevitable led to an admiration for Leeha’s newfound ability.

“Enough! Pung! From now on, you are in command of the Virtue Knights. Make sure Faust and the undead can’t get anywhere near the ‘Divine Staff’!”

“Oh, okay! Leave it to me, captain!”

After quickly transferring command, Lark and Kijung rushed to Leeha’s side. Their urgency indicated the significant distance from the battlefield where Bluebeard, Leeha, and Igor, Faust were engaged. Even as allies rushed to assist Leeha, Lark and Kijung couldn’t help but marvel at his unique skill.

“A missile attack with such power and no homing capability? Unthinkable. While archers use the 『Guided Arrow』, its power pales in comparison. It’s more of a supportive skill for distraction rather than a main attack. So, a skill that killed Igor in just two shots couldn’t possibly be just a distraction.”

Both wondered how Leeha managed to hit a moving target like Igor with curving bullets, especially from a distance of over 2000 meters.

But witnessing Igor’s ashes, forcibly logged out from Middle Earth, only underscored their disbelief. Ultimately, the answer was simple: sheer strength. The very thought instilled a momentary fear in Lark.

“Damn, all forces of Yamato, protect the Count.”

“No, wait. Chiyou, I didn’t take you as someone so clever”, Bluebeard remarked, his words accompanied by the sinister sound of his teeth grinding. Despite having regrouped with considerable forces including dragons, to Bluebeard, they were merely ‘these kinds of people’, showcasing the overwhelming power he possessed that was drenched in fury.

“Support Faust, you wretch. If you join in, the knights will be easily dealt with. Ensure Igor’s minions can’t retreat. Can you manage that?”

“Of course”, was the confident reply.

Leeha and Lark’s faces twisted at this. Their primary goal was Igor’s death; if Igor fell, they would withdraw, allowing them to confront Faust.

“It’d be tough with just the command of forces. Chiyou alone wouldn’t be enough to fend off the onslaught.”

Leeha and Lark exchanged looks, their thoughts aligning at that moment.

“Let’s finish this quickly!”

“Hey, dragon? I’m not sure how to call you, but we need your support! 『Blue Hurricane』!”

Lark’s skill activated in sync with Leeha’s shot. The moment Lark’s sword sparked with blue, a ferocious azure tornado engulfed Bluebeard.


Blaugrunn’s eyebrows twitched momentarily, but he wasn’t foolish enough to attack Lark in that instant. 『Impudent humans.

『Energy Wave』!』 Immediately, Blaugrunn unleashed a paralyzing magic. The electricity crackling around Bluebeard was visible even to Leeha from afar, though the wind was strong enough that Kijung had to lift his arm to shield himself. Yet, Leeha remained undisturbed.

“Ballistics unaffected by wind speed and direction are indeed overpowered”, he murmured, quietly pulling the trigger. The gunshot coincided with Bluebeard’s head snapping back.

“Hit!”

Kijung exclaimed, though no one else seemed joyous. The fierce cyclone of Blue Hurricane obscured Bluebeard from view.

“Blaugrunn? What happened?”

“You know, Leeha-nim.”

“Damn, thought so.”

Lark showed a dejected look amid the biting wind.

“It’s the first time I’ve seen someone walk through a Blue Hurricane like that. Oh, maybe because he’s not human?”

Bluebeard walked through the storm as if it were a gentle breeze, a spectacle not even high-ranking users could replicate.

“Foolish… petty, humans”, he muttered. However, le’s expression remained unflinching. As soon as everyone realized what he was pushing out, the atmosphere froze over even more. Especially notable was Leeha’s expression which had turned distinctly stiff.

“What, even at this distance?”

The bullet’s velocity wouldn’t have decreased much. What sort of being could intercept a bullet traveling close to the muzzle velocity of 830 m/s with their teeth?

Bluebeard narrowed the distance. And in a moment, he vanished.

“It’s embarrassing to call this a trap”, he sneered.

Whoosh! He reappeared right in front of Leeha. The defense of Blaugrunn and Komaren, and even Jellypong’s reaction speed couldn’t keep up with his movement—it was as if he made everyone blind.

“I should start by killing you, Leeha!”

Bluebeard’s staff, seething with dark energy, swung in a flash.

Swooooosh! However, what the staff sliced through was not Leeha’s flesh.


『Embrace of the Green』!”

“Krrrrrrrrk!”

Lark’s protective magic, used in a split-second, successfully enveloped Leeha in layers, and by the time it was all sliced through, Koma had already pulled Leeha back.

“Blaugrunn, Jellypong! Attack! 『Electric Spear』

Fizzzzzzzt!

Blaugrunn didn’t miss the momentary opening. Bluebeard’s failed ambush meant he had entered the encircled area himself—effectively, he had surrounded himself, an opportunity they couldn’t afford to miss.

The spear of lightning shot towards Bluebeard, but with just three sidesteps, le avoided Blaugrunn’s magic.

“Momom!”

“Kraaaaaaaah!”

As Koma and Jellypong were first to charge at Bluebeard after throwing Leeha back,

Shiiiing – Shing – Shing!

Dozens of tentacles and slashes tore through the air at a speed too volatile to track, but Bluebeard countered them all with a single swing of his staff.

“Invisible to the eyes.”

For someone like Kay, who hadn’t invested much in dynamic vision, Bluebeard’s arm and staff movements were too fast to see, feeling only the buzzing motion around.

To Bluebeard, such reactions were far from surprising,

“Yawn-worthy speed.”

Puff…

“Mewoong!”

In less than a minute, several exchanges took place. Yet, it was Bluebeard’s kick that unleashed the true extent of his power, sending Koma and Jellypong flying over 50 meters, crashing into the ground.

“Le, you withstand that.”


“I haven’t lived poorly enough for mere hatchling to call me by name.”

“Hmph! Do you think your evil deeds have not left an impression on me, who possesses the memories of an adult?”

Whoosh!

Blaugrunn charged at Le, his claws crackling with electricity. Instead of casting spells one by one, he had memorized spells loaded onto his hands, firing them off whenever he swung— a method Leeha saw for the first time. Blaugrunn’s altered combat style, blending physical attacks with magical, was undeniably sharp and efficient. Even if just one shot landed, there was a high chance that Bluebeard would enter a paralyzed state, and at that moment, he would face a concentrated attack from those around him, including Leeha and others. Not to mention, the Breath that contained all of Blaugrunn’s energy was a given. The problem was that the ‘single shot’ failed to hit its target.

It seemed that Blaugrunn hadn’t been idly waiting while Leeha grew stronger. He had been launching a formidable offensive against Bluebeard, but to no avail.

The attacker’s inevitable anxiety and impatience were palpable, and Leeha felt them too. It was clear as day that if this continued, Blaugrunn would suffer a deadly counterattack.

“Damn it, Lark! You got anything?”

“I don’t think I’ve even received a thank you for saving you.”

As Leeha glared sharply, Lark quickly lifted his sword.

“Ahem, not that I was demanding a thank you! Anyway, this isn’t the time to just stand around after hearing ‘you got anything?'”

His sword gleamed with a red aura.

With energies different from his usual instantaneous skills condensing on the blade, Bluebeard’s gaze sharpened as he fought off Blaugrunn.

“Ha. Seems it’s not time to mess with the hatchling. Sorry, little-bronze.”

『Aaaargh!』

His staff shot out like lightning. The moment it shattered Blaugrunn’s claw, its true target was his chest, aiming precisely for the heart, the dragon’s heart. However, by raising his left arm across his chest, Blaugrunn managed to protect his heart.

『Aaaah!』

“Blaugrunn-ssi!”

An unavoidable consequence of this was a hole in his left arm.

Leeha pulled the trigger towards Bluebeard, but missed.

Dodging Leeha’s bullets, Bluebeard leaped up and kicked Blaugrunn in the face. Despite the inconceivable difference in their sizes, Blaugrunn’s massive body rolled on the ground.

“Damn, don’t come closer!”

Bang, bang! Even continuous firing was too slow to match Bluebeard’s swift movements.

“Lark!”

Moreover, he wasn’t running toward Leeha.

Lark watched this, his blade now fully enveloped in a glowing red aura, though slightly lacking intensity.

“Dammit, almost done – just 5.5 seconds! Hold him off for just 5 seconds!”

Losing his cool in desperation, a shadow loomed over him.

Bluebeard was still about 3 meters away, not the one standing in front of Lark.

“Blocking for 5 seconds should be enough, right? 『Holy Spirit』, 『Pledge of the Temple Knights』.”

Kijung steadied himself with the power of the Holy Spirit and the knights’ oath.

“Interesting, let’s see what this Holy Knight sprout can do!”

Kijung knew, even the fights between Blaugrunn and Bluebeard – he couldn’t properly see them, could he?

Meaning, he couldn’t possibly block the attacks with his shield.

No matter how he positioned the shield, the staff would cunningly bypass it, targeting Lark’s neck.

So, he didn’t choose to lift his shield.

“See for yourself! Even a worm wriggles when stepped on; do you think I’d just stand still?”

Kijung threw away his shield.

If you can’t block the trajectory of a whip-like staff, then aim for the pivot point.

Even if it meant throwing his body and life into the fray.

At this moment, towards the pivot, the true body of Bluebeard, Kijung’s sword flew.

“Kijungaaaaa!”

An explosion erupted, nearly splitting the air. (To be continued…)
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It was over in a brief moment. Leeha fired another shot towards Bluebeard, and in that intervening time, Blaugrunn unleashed a spell capable of causing 『Abnormal Status: Paralysis』 and 『Abnormal Status: Electrocution』! On top of that… Lark too thrust his sword towards Bluebeard. It was a strangely harmonious and powerful combination of forces, but Bluebeard’s attack was faster than these three events. Unbeknownst to them, the black tendrils blossoming from his staff were already latched onto Kijung.

“Heh, heh…” Kijung gasped for breath. The black tendrils had certainly latched onto him. But that was all they did. A white aura enveloping Kijung’s body was perfectly repelling the black tendrils emanating from Bluebeard’s staff.

“Damn it…” Bluebeard’s expression twisted. On the contrary, the slash that Kijung had put his entire soul into had clearly burrowed into Bluebeard’s shoulder. Instead of blood, dark blue smoke seeped out from the wound. Le did not look at Kijung in front of him. Nor did he look at his own wound. He was simply concentrating his gaze on the sudden appearance of lights in the air, trying to understand their essence.

“You dared to touch my kin, le.”

“Humph, so the earlier illusion had this meaning.”

The figure suspended in the air was an old man with a long white beard. Tears welled up in Blaugrunn’s eyes. 『Lord Bahamut!』 “I was startled, thinking you wouldn’t come!”

“I wouldn’t have come for any other reason. To show Le’s face through the hallucination, even knowing I’d be caught by such a trick, you’ve grown wiser.”

Bahamut smiled at Leeha. It’s in Bahamut’s nature, the leader of the metallic dragons and a platinum dragon himself, to remain neutral and not to meddle in the affairs of the current world. That means even if Leeha had sent a message, he wouldn’t have come. But what if Bluebeard’s face was shown directly? There was something Blaugrunn mentioned when he met Leeha after the latter had killed Toon: Everything seen and heard by Bahamut’s illusion is transmitted to Bahamut.

In other words, the reason Leeha used the hallucination at the start of the battle was all a stratagem to summon Bahamut. Seeing Leeha’s splendid smile, Bahamut nodded. Watching this sudden peaceful atmosphere, Bluebeard’s face morphed into something even more grotesque.

“Do you think you can stop me just because your attack succeeded once and now an old man on the verge of death has joined you?”

Whoooosh-! Emanating dark energy from his whole body, Bluebeard leaped towards Bahamut in the air. Or rather, he tried to leap.

“Where are you focusing?! And for someone who doesn’t know who he is, you’re the one with a face more rotten with mold!”

“Gah!”

Not even the Fragments of the Demon King could resist Lark’s “Nerve racking” skill. The moment Bluebeard looked at Lark with a face full of rage, his expression twisted even more. Just when Kijung faced Le, and Le had his gaze stolen by Bahamut, everything seemed to freeze in time. Only one person was pouring all their strength towards Bluebeard. Lark! The bright red energy that Kijung had intended to protect with his life remained condensed on his sword.

“Let’s see if you can withstand this, 『Red-Sun Strike』.”

Nothing seemed to fly out. Originally, Bluebeard, who had tried to leap towards Bahamut, ended up rushing straight at Lark, but he couldn’t. Suddenly, his body was engulfed in flames.

“That—” A skill without sound effects, visible to the eye or not. However, as the bright red energy on Lark’s sword completely disappeared, Bluebeard was burning. That was enough to greatly shock Leeha.

“That Bluebeard… he couldn’t dodge.”

He could neither block nor evade it. And that wasn’t all.


“Grrrrrr, you damned wretch! That sword- that sword-”

“My lord!”

Chiyou rushed to his side in haste, but she was not equipped with a solution either.

“Use a skill, any water-related skill, quick!”

“You idiot! Do you think magic will solve this?”

Bluebeard retorted angrily at Chiyou, attempting to help him.

Everyone, including Leeha, could not hide their shock at the suffering Le endured. Leeha’s gaze naturally shifted towards Lark.

“What on earth is that?”

“Well, it’s the feeling that no living creature can escape the sun, if it’s alive. That’s actually true, too. Sigh”, said Lark, shrugging his shoulders and slumping to the ground. His actions conveyed a confidence that the skill couldn’t possibly be countered.

“Aaaaah, Lark, Lark! I will remember your name!”

Bluebeard swung his staff wildly, hitting himself.

Le shouted Lark’s name while frantically beating his own body, looking nearly insane from his frenzy. However, this seemingly meaningless action was not without purpose; every hit made the fierce flames clinging to his body weaken a bit more.

“Isn’t there anything else?”

“Do you really think now’s the time to ask me that? Use that gun to do something―“

“Ah, right.”

Even Leeha, momentarily dazed by the destructive outcome of Lark’s skill, saw everything reverting to pointlessness and promptly swapped his magazine to fire at Bluebeard.

Bang— Bang— Bang—!

“Roaaar!”

Yet, le managed to fend off Leeha’s attack amidst the chaos, showing a desperation far from his earlier defiance, though ultimately ineffective.

As Leeha tried to reload, Bluebeard rushed him, leaving no time to pull the trigger again.


“Coming here, unable to even protect yourself, le.”

Luckily, Bahamut was present. The moment his hand emitted a white light, Bluebeard was blown against the wall as if hit by a tremendous force. The flames intensified once more.

Bluebeard hastily struck his own body with his staff again.

“Haha! Lark! Holy Knight! And Bahamut!”

Below the blazing fire, a sizzling sound could be heard. When Leeha locked eyes with the flame-engulfed Bluebeard, he involuntarily stopped pulling the trigger, a chill running down his spine.

“Fine. It was fun. Just remember, I had no choice but to do this”, he claimed.

Le, previously engulfed in rage, now smirked through his burning visage.

“What do you mean, ‘no choice’ -”

“Chiyou! Let’s go back!”

“Where to!”

Whoosh—!

Although Bahamut quickly sealed the space, Bluebeard and the Demon King’s Army users had already vanished.

None, not even Bahamut, could accurately locate Bluebeard. Seeing Bluebeard through a hallucination but reacting too late was because he had already taken control of the space.

The power that even made Bahamut hesitate signified that, at least in terms of ‘space’, Bluebeard had the advantage.

“Ahhh, they’re gone”,

Leeha, Lark, and Kijung all slumped down simultaneously.

“Whoo… But it really hit hard. Maybe I do have a knack for being a DPS?”

Holding his swords tightly, Kijung still appeared in disbelief, staring blankly into the ether. In Middle Earth, master Kay became the first user to inflict damage on Bluebeard through a ‘normal attack.’

Middle Earth wouldn’t just stand by after witnessing this.

“Looks like an achievement worth noting. I wonder if Lark thinks the same.”


Leeha smiled upon seeing Kijung’s face, which had lit up in laughter after staring blankly into space for a moment. Lark, momentarily lost in thought, quickly composed himself, making the situation feel even more unjust for Leeha alone.

“Wait, could it be that ranged attacks just don’t work on him? Judging by Lark’s skills and Kijung’s attacks having effect-”

“Roooaaarrr.”

『Myongmyong…』

What exactly is Bluebeard’s pattern? Is there a system setting that allows him to automatically dodge all ranged attacks? If that’s the case, does it mean that only melee users can deal damage to Bluebeard? Despite Leeha’s attacks being no less powerful or swift than those of Kijung and Lark, not a single one had hit its mark, while those two managed to land effective hits.

As Leeha’s thoughts spiraled further, he was approached by Koma and Jellypong.

“Ah, Koma! Jellypong! You did well. You did so well. Are you hurt anywhere?”

『Do you worry more about the dogs than me, Ha Leeha-nim?』

“Of course, Blaugrunn’s got a thicker hide. He’s much stronger than them.”

『Cough, well… That’s true.』

“Then, shall we revert to human form—no, just stay like this for now. It’s better if we head back with the Lord later.”

“Why’s that?”

At Blaugrunn’s question, Leeha glanced at Lark. Would Lark realize that this dragon is actually in human form as Blaugrunn? ‘With his level of perception, he shouldn’t be unaware. .’

Yet, knowing for a fact and merely suspecting are worlds apart. At this moment, Leeha felt more inclined to keep his cards close.

“Are you alright, Ha Leeha?”

“Yes, lord. Thank you for your help.”

“It was only natural. If it concerns Lei, it’s obvious that I would come.”

Bahamut descended to Earth and approached Leeha. His movement, fluid as if using a moving walk, momentarily made Lark flinch.

“In times like these, it’s clear…”

Bahamut muttered something about a significant nemesis possibly being involved, likening the situation to dealing with an archrival, perhaps a metal dragon from the same grand lineage.

Their short exchange was keenly observed by Leeha, who could sense the undercurrents of their conversation.

“That would be expected, wouldn’t it?”

Bahamut flashed a comforting smile. To his surprise, not only Leeha but also Kijung were astounded.

What exactly was the sword’s identity? How could Bahamut be so sure that Lark was not an ally of the Demon King’s Army?

“Do you know about this sword?”

“You’d probably know more than me. But still, what’s your relationship with Ha Leeha? Friends? Or as humans say, ‘comrades’?”

Lark’s teasing tone dropped lower as Bahamut let out a chuckle.

“Friends? Me, with that human—”

“Well, the concept of ‘comrades’ might still apply, Ha Leeha-ssi, wouldn’t you say? After all, we’ve fought back-to-back.”

“Quiet. There’s still a mountain of things I haven’t finished with you.”

Leeha sharply responded to Lark’s comment. Indeed, not everything had been settled yet. They had managed to protect the 『Divine Staff』, but there were still mountains of issues left unresolved.

“Well then, to the one who wields the Sword of Light and Color, let me offer a piece of advice. The same goes for my kin.”

Ugh…

“Are you serious? If you knew what this person has done, you wouldn’t be saying that.”
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 679

				
Arcane Sniper 679

“I wish to be on good terms with Ha Leeha, but here he is, pushing me away. Anyway, what should I do about this ‘kinship’? Is there perchance a spot available?”

“Ah, really, Lark!”

“Well, if I’m curious, I should be able to ask, right?”

“Ha ha ha ha!”

The sound of Bahamut’s laughter exploded around them.

Lark and Leeha could bicker no more.

“Fine. I shall leave. Ah, and you are.”

“Ki, Kijung- no, I go by Master Kay, dragon-nim.”

“Right. Master Kay. That was quite the striking feat. I don’t usually care for those Popes flexing their authority, but you, I find interesting.”

“Th- thank you! I’ll do my best!”

What does he mean by doing his best?

Kijung gave Bahamut a crooked salute, unsure of his own words.

“Then, I shall take my leave. Blaugrunn.”

『Yes, my lord.』

Bahamut offered Kijung a benevolent smile and then disappeared with Blaugrunn in an instant.

“Captain! Are you okay?! What happened?”

Lark was approached by the Virtue Knights, who had failed to grasp the situation from a distance.

“Sigh, I don’t even know if I’m okay or not.”

“It wouldn’t be okay if you were. You’re not supposed to be okay.”


“Huh? What do you mean?”

“There’s a place we need to go from now.”

Leeha cocked his gun, making a clicking sound, and the Virtue Knights assumed battle positions in unison.

※ ※

The attitude as if the fact that they were fighting on the same side just a moment ago didn’t matter at all. It was a stance befitting of the ones who had fought valiantly against the forces of Ranker Faust and Chiyou.

“It seems like a scary place… Can’t we not go?”

“I dislike blood. I’d prefer if you could come quietly.”

“Hmm, what if I try to run away with Juma right now? I can activate the crystal in less than 10 seconds while using our members as a shield. Think you can stop me within that time?”

Lark casually lifted the crystal, though he had not yet activated it.

“You think I can’t stop you?”

“Hmm?”

“Do you think I can’t? I’ll just shatter your crystal specifically. Ah! Don’t move recklessly, else if your head were to explode by accident, that would be troublesome for me. Whether the bullet falls from the sky! Comes from the right! Or sneaks in from the left! You won’t be able to move properly anyway, right?”

As Leeha mentioned each direction, suddenly twisting the muzzle of Black Bass, the Virtue Knights, including Lark, flinched.

It felt like they were playing a game of ‘Simon says’, and Leeha couldn’t help but laugh.

Lark briefly removed the smile from his face and then put the crystal back into his bag.

Next, he picked up his sword.

“Let’s see, my dear. Remember that old man with a bluish mold on his face burning earlier? It seems like our folks can buy us some time now.”

What will you do if I don’t run but use the Red-Sun instead? If the Virtue Knights buy time for me to finish casting, what about you? Can you stop it?

Lark’s words were also understood by Kijung.

“It was wrong to help such a bastard.


『Shield Enhancement』. Come at us, Virtue and your damned fits, I won’t let you lay a finger on Leeha hyung.”

Suddenly holding a shield, Kijung positioned himself in front of Leeha.

“It’s okay.”

Leeha pat Kijung on the shoulder, who was busy buffing himself, and then stepped in front of him again to speak.

“Yeah, the Red-Sun was certainly a remarkable skill. But who do you think really drove out that blue-mold-ridden old man? It takes me less than a second to summon the 『Lord』 back if you don’t log out. You can’t escape anywhere. Scrolls? Try it. I’d like to see if my fingers move first or if the scroll crumbles.”

Leeha appeared much more relaxed.

He knew of Lark’s formidable abilities.

And despite his annoying tone, he was aware of his incredible insight.

Therefore, he was confident that he could persuade him through words.

He believed Lark would not undervalue his abilities.

“You’re smart enough to know. You’d pretend to listen to my threat just for the sake of it. Isn’t that right, Lark?”

He knew Lark would listen.

Leeha lifted the Black Bassper. He aimed at Lark but didn’t apply any force to the trigger.

“Even if you manage to get away from me, try escaping from the leader of the metal dragons. I won’t stop you. The moment you run, you become my enemy. I will never join forces with you again.”

“Not even to ‘become friends’?”

“Not even as comrades, let alone friends.”

Who is Bahamut? He knows he is the leader of the metal dragons. The advice of such a figure to be on good terms with Leeha. Could Lark really refuse such advice?

Especially considering Leeha’s knowledge about the 『Sword』 that even Lark himself had not fully grasped. This was the crux of Leeha’s gamble. What if a fight actually breaks out here?

Koma has yet to return to the spirit world. The menacing tentacles of Jellypong remain as fearsome as ever. In comparison, the Virtue knights were a force of 480.

The death of each and every one would be a critical loss of force. And his bluff!


If Lord Bahamut were to return and become an enemy?

‘Virtue would be annihilated. Even if it’s just an ‘excuse’ to get closer to me to prevent that—Lark must listen to me.’

This was Leeha’s calculation.

“Ah, fine, I get it! Even if I am going, let’s go knowing what and how things will be.”

“You’re going to deal with the mess you’ve made.”

Lark asked, and Leeha simply replied.

“… If I throw in my lot, will the mystical creatures go back?”

With just that, Lark grasped the situation, and Leeha did not respond. However, seeing Kijung’s eyes widen, Lark nodded.

“Damn! I didn’t think I’d say this three times… Really, there’s a reason everyone keeps saying Leeha. How did you manage to get such terms? They wouldn’t have listened to humans.”

“Well. It seems like you don’t need to know that.”

“Intimacy? No, if it were just that, there would be quite a few people with it. It suggests there’s something more…”

Snap!

Lark snapped his fingers.

“You’re the one who killed our country’s knights, aren’t you?”

“What?”

“Mystical creature subjugation. You helped the mystical creatures then. You used that as leverage in these negotiations, didn’t you?”

“What are you talking about?”

Leeha calmly retorted.

Knowing about the fight with Bluebeard and Lark’s discernment, Leeha did not fall for his provocation.

Keeping a perfect poker face, Leeha’s unwavering face left Lark unable to dig any further information. Adjacent to him, Kijung’s eyes wavered slightly, and that was it.

“Sure. There’s no evidence anyway. There hasn’t been a single detection of a silence spell reaction. We have no way of knowing. Alright, alright.”

Lark sheathed his sword back into its scabbard.

The finance manager Pung beside him didn’t even have a chance to dissuade him.

“After all, knowing that something like this would happen, that’s why you insulted the mystical creatures like that. Though, I didn’t expect that ‘someday’ to come this quickly.”

“Hmm?”

Leeha tilted his head slightly. He knew something like this would happen? Does it mean he anticipated an attack by the mystical creatures?

As if answering Leeha’s question, Lark continued speaking.

“Not the annihilation of the Virtue Knighthood, but the death of just one person – me. If we can achieve a win-win with that, it’s not like we’re losing anything.”

“Cap, captain! What are you saying-”

“Think about it, Pung. Our achievements in subjugation are not temporary. They don’t disappear just because we die. So, what would happen if peace treaties are established through the death of someone like me, regardless of its kind?”

“If that happens…”

When Pung was stammering, the one truly shocked was Leeha.

His face had changed so much that he could no longer maintain his poker face.

Leeha was the one who answered.

“… Users would be prevented from claiming the 『Subjugation』 achievement ever again. But… to think I would set such conditions? What, are you some kind of psychic?”

“I never expected you to set such conditions. But if a peace treaty is signed, isn’t it a natural course of action? I couldn’t have known who would lead this negotiation, but whoever it was, if they intended to stop the war, I thought they would use that method.”

“Cra…Crazy bastard.”

“Heh, still, I hope I’m a crazy dude you like. I don’t want to be hated by someone whom the higher-ups have told to get along with~”

Lark showed a little heart gesture towards Leeha. Even as Leeha cursed, he couldn’t deny recognizing him. Just how far does this man’s ‘reading into things’ go?

Death resulting in a level down is a significant penalty. But is it so for Lark?

Lark is not a ranker!

It is unknown what level he is at now, but compared to rankers who have exceeded or are close to level 300, it would be much easier for him to level up.

Losing one level under such conditions to get more than a hundred 『Subjugation』 is a tremendous exchange gain.

Meaning, from the beginning of earning the 『Subjugation』 achievement, he had been preparing for such an incident to occur, piling up all the ‘misdeeds’ values onto himself, minimizing the losses for the Virtue Knighthood, and maximizing benefits only!

‘And he came to protect 『Divine Staff』 too. What in the world is this guy…’

Until coming to the New Continent, he probably didn’t even know the existence of Shinobigumi.

But through this one incident, he had seen the faces of the users attached to the Demon King’s Army, including Shinobigumi. He is a user from the capital defense knight squad of Minis.

Directly putting a bounty on him is something Chiyou would block by all means, but with this guy’s resourcefulness, he would make good use of Minis’ resources.

Then?

‘His position in his country would rise even further. No, maybe by uncovering the secrets of his sword; in partnership with Chiyou, he might find another way to strike.”

Leeha felt a chill.

From the first meeting, it was clear he was no ordinary person, but to think he was this kind of individual.

Plus, considering he caused effective damage to Bluebeard, and even Bahamut recognized his existence as the 『Sword』, Bahamut’s advice wasn’t only applicable to Lark.

It suggested that Leeha, too, would do well to get along with Lark.

‘He wouldn’t be unaware of that. So, now is the blatantly obvious time to take advantage of that condition. Despite that-‘

『I will follow your words this time, Leeha. It’s my mistake, after all.』

(To be continued…)

TL’s corner:

Damn, Lark might be Chiyou 2.0. I am not sure where he would go, but he is going off light with just one death after getting hundreds of subjugation achievements.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 680

				
Arcane Sniper 680

Lark’s true feelings remained unspoken. Yet, Leeha was able to discern them.

“The Capital Defense Knights isn’t somewhere just anyone can enter, Leeha-ssi. That’s why I really admire Shin Nara-ssi.”

“What, what? What’s all this sneaky talk?”

“Huh? No, nothing. But what’s the relationship between you two? Oh, right, should we speak more comfortably now? What are your ages?”

Leeha, sensing Lark’s implied praise and his probing about Shin Nara, felt anew a certain tremble towards the man before him.

“Such an annoying jerk. Really, really, really! But still……”

What would happen if he were to join hands with this man?

It was a sort of excitement felt before stepping into a new phase. Kijung: Ugh, that person seems impressive but… I really, really, re~~ally hate him.

Leeha: I agree. It would be trouble to have a drink with someone like that, right?

Lark was smoothly disarmed and led away by Leeha. Neither the Pung nor the Virtue Knights tried to stop or even protest against the actions of their captain.

This alone spoke volumes about the influence he wielded within his “organization”. Shortly after, a beacon of light flickered in Juma City.

“He’s here! Leeha has come!”

“Ka, Lark! You really brought Lark!”

“Blood, the top rankers were telling the truth?”

The users, who had been in a heated state, were barely kept in check by the powers of Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Pei Wu. Yet, upon seeing Leeha, they were swept into a different kind of excitement.

Like the miracle of the Red Sea parting, the users made way for Leeha, Kijung, and Lark, each offering their comments.

“Leeha-ssi!”

“Kijung-ssi!”

“You really brought Lark…”


“Where from? No, you went to 『Divine Staff』, right? But did 『he have that』?”

It wasn’t just ordinary users.

The Sacred Knights, Byulcho, and even Bailephus were all focused on Leeha.

Leeha quietly called for Blaugrunn.

Following Bahamut, Blaugrunn transformed into a human form and appeared by Leeha’s side, using sound amplification and levitation magic.

“I will now tell you where I have been, what I have done, and why we must not fight against paleos and the mystical creatures.”

Then, he turned to look at Lark.

Lark met Leeha’s gaze and nodded, his attitude suggesting she could betray him if she wished. Leeha began to unfold the story. His first words were,

“There is an organization called – Shinobigumi.”

With just that one sentence, the expressions of all users who knew of Shinobigumi and Leeha changed. Lark was no exception.

“Is that why we haven’t seen Igor and Faust recently?”

“To join the Demon Army…? Can a user even make that choice?”

“What’s Shinobigumi? That’s insane. How can a mere user do something like that?”

“A mere user? There were rumors that Chiyou was into some weird business!”

“Does joining the ranks of Bluebeard equate to that? It’s absurd!”

“So, 『The Knight of the Rainbow』 was completely duped by Chiyou?”

“It’s because of meddling with those mystical creatures without thinking it through, now look at the state we’re in.”

one voiced their concern.

“But isn’t it like settling the score by protecting the ‘Divine Staffs’ and fighting for it right now?”

another pondered.


“No, the score won’t be settled until Lark is handed over to the mystical creatures.”

clarified another.

“Heavens… I can’t decide if that’s foolish or pitiful compared to the Blood Gates.”

When the series of stories involving the Shinobigumi ended, the area in front of Juma City suddenly buzzed like a marketplace. People believed Leeha’s words and discussed them, questioning the veracity of Leeha’s claims and the truthfulness of the tales. Users whispered urgently under the dark daylight.

Had he known those people were spies planted by Shinobigumi, Leeha would have immediately beheaded them, but he couldn’t afford to be distracted by them for the moment.

『The story hasn’t ended yet! As I just mentioned, by handing over Lark to the mystical creatures, our battle with the paleos will come to a temporary halt.

However, that’s not the end. paleos are not our enemy but rather someone we can stand against together, so it’s safe to regard them as our allies.』

Leeha’s voice resonated once again.

Even the mystical creatures, who had little interest in the Shinobigumi story, focused on Leeha this time.

Of course, most of them had faces that said, ‘Do you think we will cooperate with you?’

『The Pope never mentioned this himself, and there’s no guarantee that the mystical creatures and paleo will come to our aid when actual battle ensues… But fundamentally, the New Continent is unfamiliar territory. It’s also their land. If we are to battle here, their cooperation is essential, isn’t it? Since we’ve never had official dealings with them up to now… If that’s the case, we’ll establish official relations going forward.』

“How do you plan to achieve that?”

“Our affinity is already at -100%! Even giving them Lark won’t reset that.”

『Of course, it began with our mistakes, so we have to apologize first, not as individuals but with the strength of all humanity. I will!』

Leeha gestured downwards, and Blaugrunn manifested beneath Leeha’s signal. Kijung momentarily flailed his arms and legs at the sudden levitation, but he soon adjusted his posture.

『Here, I will propose to the Vatican using the power of the prospective ‘Holy Knight’. At least, we will explore the possibility of utilizing all paleo and mystical creatures in the western part of the New Continent as part of the ‘Demon King’s Army Resistance’. This includes sharing information about the Demon King’s Army’s movements and mutually cooperating in actual battles.』

Everyone’s eyes widened.

The unfamiliar term ‘Holy Knight’, along with Leeha’s ambitious plan, seemed unbelievable.

“paleo?”

“To use paleo as a resistance force? Is that possible?”


“But there are still undiscovered mystical creatures. If even seventeen of them shared information…”

The power to oppose the Demon King’s Army would surge immensely!

“By the way, what’s a Holy Knight?”

“Isn’t that person a guild master of Byulcho?”

Some from Byulcho were somewhat taken aback to see Kijung revealed as a ‘Holy Knight’ at this juncture, although Kijung, who had concluded his discussion with Leeha on the way to Juma City, showed no change in expression.

From the start, Kijung had intended to use the power of the Holy Knight to stop Lark’s rampage, knowing that once he became a Holy Knight, hiding it would be impossible.

The notion Leeha brought up was astonishing to the mystical creatures.

Not just peace coexistence or a non-aggression pact, but proposing an active alliance.

“Do you believe that’s possible, Leeha? To use the power of the mystical creatures?”

『Yes. I believe it’s possible, lord Bailephus.』

“Is there a special plan, Leeha-ssi?”

Those who already knew about the Holy Knight became even more interested in Leeha’s grand plan.

Bailephus, of course, and even Shin Nara swayed slightly upon hearing Leeha’s words. Leeha touched his chin, pondering before answering.

『Hmm, I’ll need to work out the details, but initially, I was a soldier, you know? I did learn something. The strategic doctrine of the Green Berets-』

“From the times of World War, operations conducted by the 10th Special Forces Group involving small military units engaging in guerrilla warfare and rallying local villages for resistance.”

someone unexpectedly supplemented Leeha’s somewhat uncertain response.

“Alexander?”

Bailephus, sitting above, scowled.

“It’s a traditional military operation since the World Wars, utilizing small military personnel to persuade small European villages for the formation and command of resistance forces, thereby disrupting the enemy’s rear and engaging in guerrilla tactics.”

Leeha was quite surprised.

It’s a well-known fact that the U. S. Army Special Forces are referred to by the nickname Green Berets by anyone with even a slight interest.

“More than anything, Alexander himself is an American.”

But knowing not only the original name of the Green Berets, the 10th Special Forces Group, but also their role?

Could it be… a military enthusiast? Or—

A former or current soldier?

Alexander still had a frown on his face.

Unable to discern his feelings from that displeased expression, Leeha was at a loss.

“It may not align with my definition of justice, but… it’s undoubtedly efficient for a greater cause. I didn’t expect to hear about it here.”

“Uh, well—”

“If you know that much, then I can leave the rest in your hands, Leeha. We should be heading back now. Bailephus?”

“Ahem, understood. My comrade.”

Interrupting Leeha who was about to speak, Alexander and Bailephus suddenly took their leave.

As a golden dragon flapped its wings and flew away, all players momentarily watched.

“Ah… anyway! We will strive to reach that level of readiness! We ask that you, the players, also refrain from engaging with paleow in combat and focus on growing stronger for the upcoming fourth wave!”

Leeha raised his tone and lifted his hand high.

How many people had truly understood everything Leeha had said? But at that moment, it didn’t matter.

Alexander had acknowledged Leeha and left, and all was in the hands of Lark as planned by Leeha.

Above all, Leeha’s strategy utilizing mythical beings and paleow against the Demon Army’s resistance was enough to boost the morale of the players.

Wow, wow, wow! Leeha! Leeha! Leeha!

It was only natural for the players to chant Leeha’s name in some sense.

After the commotion settled, a considerable number of players had left, but many still remained around Leeha.

Not all faces were smiling, though. Shin Nara and Bobae, in particular, looked at Leeha with eyes full of discontent.

“You have a plan, right?”

“Of course. Trust me.”

“I do trust you since it’s something Leeha is doing, but—”

“Even though I do trust you! Geez, really! How can someone be so likable, yet so frustrating? Kijung! Aren’t you upset hearing all this? Because of that despicable person, we’ve suffered so much! It wouldn’t be satisfying enough even if he was socially buried alive!”

It made sense for Bobae to cut in and rant.

Especially since the members of Byulcho, including Kijung, harbored deeper resentment towards Lark.

Seeing Kijung bewildered and speechless beside Leeha only infuriated Bobae further.

“Don’t you have anything to say, Kijung?”

“Uh, well, I mean.”

“Argh, it’s so frustrating! Anyway! I can forgive anyone else but him. Lark, I swear I’ll kill you myself someday.”

Even as Bobae was spewing threatening words and jabbing the air, Lark showed no particular reaction.

He found the whole situation just as absurd.

“What are you trying to do?”
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“What am I trying to do? Punishing you, I guess.”

“…This? I thought you would publicly burn me at the stake or hang me on a large cross.”

“Ha, that’s something for mythical creatures to do.”

Leeha barely smiled. Lark too, showed a heated smile. There was no need to say it like this. Strictly speaking, Leeha was now altering the story as he spoke.

In Lark’s 『Subjugation』, neither Chiyou nor the Shinobigumi had any involvement. Knowing this, it was only then he reached out to use that fact to his advantage.

The 『Subjugation』 itself was purely an act of Lark’s greed. But what good would saying that do?

“Lark can be buried. It’s possible to tarnish the reputation of the Virtue Knights as well.”

There’s a fleeting satisfaction to be had instantly. But isn’t there a way to utilize this situation more advantageously from abroader perspective?

What Leeha considered was to turn 『everything』 into Chiyou’s fault. By positioning Lark as a relatively innocent victim, and sewing all acts of evil, the origin of malice, from Chiyou’s perspective!

“If only half of what I say is believed by the users… Shinobigumi’s influence in the Old Continent will significantly reduce.”

Of course, the desired effect was not just that.

Leeha: Lark-ssi, you owe me one now.”

Lark: Me, oh… You do like stripping things bare, don’t you? Alright, I’ll note one down for you.”

“Then… let’s go. The mythical creatures have been eagerly waiting.”

“Yeah, yeah. I just hope it won’t be too torturous. Oh, wait. If I knew it would be like this, I should have adjusted the assimilation rate back in Juma City-”

“Quiet. You need to experience some pain too.”

“…That’s too much.”

Leeha, leading the way to the mythical creatures with Lark in front.

Following him were groups including Lee Jiwon, faye Wu, and Kijung. To the mythical creatures and the paleos, it appeared as if all remaining users were under Leeha’s command.


“Lord Koba! It hasn’t even been two hours yet. Now, Lark-ssi, it’s time for you to pay the price!”

Leeha pushed Lark’s back towards Koba and said.

“Wait a minute! I’m not ready-”

“Damn humans!”

“The most painful way, the slowest, the most certain death awaits you!”

The leading mythical creature, Koba, didn’t even look at Lark.

The red goat paleo’s mythical creature Aibex and the black crane paleo’s mythical creature Hudid bound Lark and dragged him away; that was all Leeha saw for a moment.

“…Forget about that human. But, was what you said earlier sincere?”

Koba only had eyes for Leeha.

“Eh?”

“About joining hands with us permanently… to stand against Bluebeard among the Demon King’s Fragments.”

“If you’re all willing, we have no intention of sparing any resources.”

“Do you have that power? Just like I said before, you are still-”

“I don’t have it. But-”

Leeha brought Kijung to the front.

“-this person does. Or, will have it soon. Saying it in words might not convince you, so why not visit again with concrete evidence?”

At least in terms of negotiation, Leeha could be said to be remarkably astute.

It was because of his experience dealing with the incredibly challenging Browless. Leeha felt thankful to his in-game mentor who helped him understand the nature of the game.

‘Koba is a clever mythical creature, capable of making items. His depth of thought is different from other creatures.’

With that thought, Leeha found it easier to reason.


If it was a mythical creature with intelligence similar to, or exceeding, human intelligence, then the first thing to figure out was what it desired.

“Once the Demon King’s Army is gone, you’ll be able to live more freely, in a ‘much larger land.’”

Then he smiled.

Whenever they felt the demon’s aura, the paleos couldn’t leave their ‘nests’ and had to hide. It was unlikely they wouldn’t be interested in Leeha’s proposal.

But, a sure promise. In essence, the problem was that there was no one to guarantee its execution.

“Leeha…”

Koba quietly stepped forward.

“We don’t trust humans. But Leeha, if you’d do it”,

“Then?”

“I’ll persuade the mystical creatures here.”

Koba reached out his hand.

“Please, I ask of you.”

Leeha grasped Koba’s hand. Somewhere, the agonizing scream of Lark echoed, but among the players watching the handshake of spirit and human with bittersweet faces, none paid heed to the scream. Scream..ng! Ah-…

“Haha, really? I thought the capital was abuzz lately, turns out something happened in the New Continent.”

“Yes. Kidd, it would have been fun if you were there too.

“Bluebeard” was so fast… I couldn’t even chase after him. At one point, I wondered if long-range attacks were completely useless against him.”

“Impossible. It’s just that your slack attack didn’t work.”

“See, if I give you a lift, you always react like this.”

As Leeha patted Kidd’s shoulder, all three of them, including Browless, burst into laughter.

It had been two and a half days since they offered Lark to the mystical creatures as a “sacrifice.”


After logging out, Leeha had a long, restful sleep, then immediately went to the academy in the capital city of Tievial, reporting recent events to Browless.

“Are those friends doing well?”

“Yes. It seemed like they missed the headmaster quite a bit.”

“Miss, what is there to miss. Ah, did they teach you anything? There must be some techniques I don’t know.”

Browless, uncharacteristically, blushed and quickly changed the subject.

Kidd’s expression changed at Browless’s mention of “techniques I don’t know”. Leeha sneakily glanced at Kidd and nodded.

“What would that be?”

“I’m not going to teach you.”

“Just show it to me. I’ll follow.”

“See, I knew you’d say that. Which is why I won’t show it to you either.”

“Have you heard of ‘Silent Shooting’?”

Kidd quickly took a silencer out of his bag and attached it to his Crimson Geckos.

While the jovial mood continued, Browless once again turned to Leeha.

“So, where did they say they were heading to?”

“To the east…”

In the 48 hours Leeha spent learning the ‘Curve Shot’, he gathered a few pieces of information.

One of which was the future whereabouts of Elizabeth and Brown, who said they would stay in the east for about a week before departing.

“To the east? What’s there?”

“If it’s the far east… It might be Toon’s homeland, but they didn’t specifically mention that place. They said they would stay five more days after I left – Ah! That’s until tomorrow. And now… Luger is there. Maybe you’ve heard something more?”

Luger, who arrived at the spot where those people were just half a day ago and much later than Leeha had predicted, must also be quite desperate to learn something from them.

“The east, huh? What about you?”

“I was only told to stay at the director’s side. Because of ‘that letter’.”

“Is that so.”

“Yes. They told me to be especially careful when reading ‘the letter’. They said nothing about its content, just that they could not speak further.”

Leeha emphasized the word “letter” while giving Kidd a look that said, ‘You knew, didn’t you?’

Kidd briefly coughed and turned away.

“It was my quest, so I couldn’t interfere.”

“You wouldn’t even tell me? How stingy.”

“I meant to tell you. Just never found the right timing.”

While Leeha and Kidd quietly bickered, Browless’s expression hardened slightly.

“Eavesdropping?”

“Excuse me?”

“No, it’s impossible that they wouldn’t talk. It’s not like it’s through a messenger… And especially not to you, Leeha, of all people. Neither Elizabeth nor Brown would have kept silent.”

As he listened to Browless, Leeha’s expression gradually changed.

“Could it be? Was someone listening? There were househouses around, but-”

There seemed to be an ‘external pressure’, was that what this meant?

“Hows-hows—Ah, the vehicle-like things you mentioned earlier? No, that can’t be it. If those were devices for eavesdropping, they wouldn’t have chosen such a location in the first place.”

“Ah… Then-”

“It would be closer to long-distance eavesdropping rather than direct listening. I doubt it’s perpetual surveillance. Considering factors like the distance of mana, there’s an issue. It’s not a magic spell that detects specific words. They aren’t weak enough to worry about detection at that level. So, it reacts to something… something fixed… Could it be the situation? A thought? Is that possible? But if not…”

“… I’m not sure what the situation is, but there’s something unavoidable for humans, headmaster.”

“Hm? What’s that, Kidd?”

“Pulse and blood pressure. No matter how one may circle around with words, when trying to convey a meaning, a person’s body can never lie. You can hide your face, but not the heartbeat. If the triggering of eavesdropping magic is conditioned on sudden changes in pulse or blood pressure…”

“I see. In that case, there’s no need to cast magic; an item could do it. Leeha, have you noticed them carrying any unusual items?”

As Browless got visibly excited by Kidd’s explanation, he inquired Leeha. However, Leeha had nothing particular to say.

He didn’t know what kind of clothes they usually wore or what items they carried, so it was impossible to distinguish what was unusual.

When Leeha hesitated and shook his head, Browless’s expression turned to one of disappointment once again.

Kidd, too, sighed deeply. Yet, at this moment, it wasn’t an item but a different idea that occurred to Leeha.

“If the eavesdropping is actually happening.”

“Eh?”

“Elizabeth and Brown clearly said to be careful ‘when reading a letter’. It’s like they knew something.”

“What does that mean?”

“Tomorrow, when the letter is opened at the Vatican—could it be that someone there has set up the eavesdrop?”

Hearing Leeha’s words, Kidd and Browless’s eyes widened. The possibility of eavesdropping, the cautionary advice about opening the letter, and even the direct protective quest Browless gave to Kidd.

The three men were unable to speak any further. The opening of the letter is tomorrow. Who will attend the Vatican? Who should be suspected?

“It can’t be the Vatican… No, that’s madness. How could anyone cause trouble there?”

Yet all evidence pointed that way, hinting at an impending problem.

“Director, I’ll make a quick visit to the Vatican.”

A check was necessary. In a situation with numerous warning signals, to simply think ‘what could happen at the Vatican?’

was not an attitude of a sharpshooter.

“What for?”

“I think it’s best to figure out the attendees and their list for tomorrow’s event.”

Leeha swallowed.

He couldn’t go in. It was a secretive meeting attended by a very few pre-notified individuals. It wasn’t a place where just anyone could attend no matter how close they were.

So, what should Leeha do then?

“Find out where the meeting will be held too. Kidd, you should come?”

Leeha quickly made a suggestion.

-Headmaster Browless, the place that needs protecting isn’t here—it seems, the Vatican, perhaps signifying the event of tomorrow. I’ll go too.

He nodded, got up quickly, and put on his hat.

“I’ll be back, director.”

“Hm. Don’t overdo it.”

Browless had a rough idea of what they planned to do. With only a day left until the meeting, Leeha and Kidd had to find out the venue and the list of attendees, and also establish the best position to protect Browless.

(To be continued…)
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“Phew… You’ve done well! Now, onto the next! Next! Where to, Rubini-nim?!”

“Really~ Kijung-ssi, you seem overly excited, huh?”

Bobae chuckled as she watched Kijung, who was eagerly shaking his sword and shield.

With no further interference from mystical creatures or paleos, there was no force left to hinder Kijung’s quest to change his job to a Holy Knight.

“I have every reason to be excited! We’ve already crossed the 70% mark!”

The monsters ensnared by Rubini’s map were being steadily defeated, and with each victory, Kijung’s quest completion rate sharply rose.

“Hmm, at this pace, we could finish within a week.”

“Really? Hyein hyung, you think so too, right?”

“We might even need to thank the Lark and the Virtue Knights, Kay.”

“What do you mean by that, Tale?”

“Because of them, the entire Middle Earth knows you’re becoming a Holy Knight now. Maybe that’s why no other users dare come here.”

This was another reason for Kijung’s rapid progress.

While it was unclear what exactly being a Holy Knight entailed, the users that day instinctively knew it was ‘something tremendous.’

Indeed, within Middle Earth’s community platforms, from speculative rumors about what a Holy Knight is, to details about the guild ‘Byulcho’ and various gossip about its guild master, ‘Master Kay’ were swirling.

“Tale, honestly! How can you say they did us a favor? People from Byulcho are too kind, that’s their problem. It’s obviously because Kijung-ssi has always amassed good karma.”

“Ha, I’d have to agree with Bobae this time, Tale.”

“Ha, even Hyein agrees—”

Indeed, the viewpoint that Lark’s interference led to the current situation was uniquely held by Tale alone.

Bobae, quick to praise her boyfriend, completely flipped whenever Lark was mentioned.


However, Hyein joining in Bobae’s one-sided support had its merits.

Kijung’s usual conduct indeed contributed significantly to the high quest completion rate. Near Lope Continent’s Watchtower and in the vicinity of Red Wood on the Erika Continent.

At all these challenging locations for low-level entrants, Byulcho and Master Kay were always there to lend a hand.

It was unlikely those who had received help or guidance from Kijung even once could forget him.

Many community posts circulated, suggesting, “Let’s temporarily avoid areas where monsters appear to assist Master Kay’s quest”, showing voluntary ‘control’ to such an extent that Master Kay’s reputation was at its peak, thanks to Kijung’s usual behavior, just as Bobae and Hyun said.

“You praise me so, but I have nothing to give in return. How troublesome. Bobae, how about a mojito in the Maldives this weekend?”

“Ugh, boring. When was that ever fun—Wait… something’s coming!”

As Kijung playfully teased Bobae, Rubini’s voice rose sharply.

“What is it, Rubini-nim? A group of monsters? How many?”

“A monster… just one, but it’s strong.”

“One?”

“Yes, just one? I’m not sure; it’s somewhat different from the monsters we’ve seen so far.”

As Rubini shook his head, the expressions of everyone in Byulcho and the Paladins hardened.

“Another paleo?”

“No, it might be Bluebeard. Let’s prepare to retreat for now.”

Kijung immediately took out a crystal ball.

“Should I scout ahead?”

“No. Jin Gonggong, Biyemi, don’t split up this time. It’s too dangerous.”

“Kekeke, our guild master is this nervous—”

“Yes. You should be nervous. Please have your Blink Scrolls ready in case the crystal ball activation is delayed. Let’s not lose anyone.”


Kijung spoke seriously to Biyemi, who even in an attempt to ease the tension, stiffened up again.

Having faced Bluebeard before, Kijung knew if it was indeed him, not even the entire forces of Byulcho and the Paladins would stand a chance.”

Bobae-ssi, if you see it, please let me know.”

“Yes. According to Rubini-nim’s map, the direction is over there, but it’s not in sight yet. I believe it will come into view once we get over that hill.”

“It is coming straight towards us. It’s clear the monster is targeting us”, Rubini announced after examining the map. Bobae strained his eyes further.

“Damn, now of all times… Bluebeard? Suddenly?”

They had been unbothered for the last two and a half days.

Kijung couldn’t shake off the feeling of gratitude mixed with the inkling that this was potentially a huge problem.

Bluebeard must have known. He must have known that Kijung would become a Holy Knight. Therefore, it was necessary to consider the possibility of his interference.

Fortunately, they hadn’t encountered such an issue yet, and thus, Kijung had somewhat forgotten about it.

“If Bluebeard continues to interfere, clearing the quest will become difficult.”

Kijung quickly opened the friend window. His friend list, known for its extensive connections, was already full. There were quite a number of people he could immediately call upon.

Should he call for help?

Could they handle Bluebeard here? While Kijung was organizing his thoughts, Bobae shouted.

“I see it! The monster… uh, what?”

“What is it?”

“No, it’s just… a mummy?”

Bobae’s tone twisted strangely.

“A mummy? Do mummies appear in the New Continent?”

“No, it’s not that… I’ve never seen this kind of form before… Its whole body is wrapped in something like bandages.”


“What matters isn’t its appearance. Bluebeard~… It was burning at that time… Rubini-nim, what does the ‘size’ on the map indicate?”

Behind Bobae and Kijung’s bickering, Hyein asked.

Rubini’s face twitched slightly.

“It’s difficult to interpret.”

“What do you mean?”

Monsters’ ‘strength’ is represented as ‘size’ on Rubini’s map. But difficult to interpret?

Hyein approached Rubini’s map with a puzzled look.

“At first, it was quite large. Clearly… However, now the size has decreased. Actually, its size is changing slightly even at this moment.”

“Indeed.”

The red dot inside the map indeed fluctuated in size; it trembled slightly and then would suddenly expand, rapidly shrinking again, sometimes to the point of becoming invisible.

“Has this pattern occurred in the past?”

“Not as far as I know… There wasn’t a monster that deliberately used its power in this manner.”

“How strong is it when it’s at its largest size compared to other monsters?”

Hyein asked, gripping her staff. The mummy had approached within 100 meters by now.

Even without Bobae, one could easily observe it with the naked eye.

The bandages wrapped around its body were more drenched than white, and there were many places where they were loosely hanging.

Its gait also lacked strength, making it look dangerously frail for an adult male’s physique.

“Kijung-ssi, shall we give it a shot?”

“That, that seems good. It looks incredibly weak.”

“Let’s not be careless. Monsters found in the New Continent can’t be weak, right, Kay?”

Tale’s sword blazed with fire.

Biyemi also prepared for battle by tossing something resembling water balloons.

As the Paladins formed a battle formation, Hyein asked Rubini again.

“Rubini-nim?”

“Yes?”

“If we were to compare it to when the monster’s ‘size’ was at its largest… What level of monster would it be comparable to?”

The question made Hyein’s expression stiffen.

Rubini, an oracle, was not easily flustered.

Having the ability to predict the monsters’ strength, movements, and battle patterns meant encountering hardly anything that surprised her.

But her anxious expression was telling.

“That… I might have seen it wrong. The ‘thing’s’ movements are unnerving—”

“It’s alright. Please tell us.”

“Oh, oh? It’s getting faster! Prepare for battle! Prepare for battle!”

Kijung excitedly shouted as if touched by a surge of energy.

Some unknown monster? It’s definitely not a situation to let one’s guard down.

Yet, consider the level of power present here! Furthermore, facing a monster we’ve never seen before!

It’s true that imagining the rise in our quest completion rate upon defeating this creature does bring a certain joy.

“Huh? Who—Toon? As big as Toon, you say? If it’s Toon then—given that it was huge even on the maps with a 56m radius in the past—if it’s based on today’s map scale, just one Toon would take up 20% of it!?”

In the name of god!

Haah!

When the Paladins finished their battle preparations along with the chant, rubinia whispered softly to Hyein, her voice faint but clear.

“It’s bigger. Probably—most likely, you must have seen it wrong.”

“Just, just a moment! Bigger than Toon, you said? That Toon—”

“But—but it’s not like I got a good look at it, it was but a fleeting moment, so I thought surely something was amiss—that… that brief moment when ‘it’—”

“Let’s kill it! 『Holy Spirit』, 『Shield Fortification』, 『Triple Armor』!”

Whooooosh!

Kijung was the first to rush out, casting buffs on himself. Bobae immediately strung an arrow and pulled it back.

“-It’s at least three times larger than Toon.”

Hyein’s face completely twisted.

“Ah, no, no! Kay-”

He immediately shouted.

“Stop—!”

“『Piercing Arrow』!”

Shhhhhhh”…………”

Bobae’s arrow flew toward the mummy’s chest.

Unlike regular arrows, the arrowhead with penetrating power completely bored through the mummy’s bandages and flesh.

Pwoooof!

As Hyein screamed to a halt, the melee fighters who stopped in their tracks could only watch the scene unfold.

“Uh… Bobae’s arrows are incredibly strong, aren’t they?”

“Ki, ki-kick. Doesn’t it seem like a bullet rather than an arrow??”

“No, it feels more like magic.”

The arrow, almost completely penetrated, disappeared into the creature’s body, ‘fletching’ and all. Considering the mummy’s size, the arrow would have protruded from its back with room to spare.

“With a Piercing Arrow……? Without even a strength buff?”

Even Bobae, who shot the arrow, wore a face of disbelief.

“That thing… is it weak??”

“No, no. I was just—trying to slow it down for a bit. That was it.”

Bobae’s arrow was not used as an attack skill against giant monsters but rather a skill for control.

Hearing Bobae’s words, Kijung turned his head even more to look at Hyein.

“Hyung?”

Confusion was appearing on Hyein’s face as well.

“That, that’s not what—I mean, definitely—”

Hyein also turned his head to look at Rubini.

“That’s what I tried to say… that it must have been a mistake.”

Although a large eyepatch covered the upper half of Rubini’s face, the reddening beneath her eyes couldn’t be hidden.

Seeing her embarrassment, Hyein also managed a wry smile.

“Heh, heh. Sorry, Kay.”

“Oh man, how surprised I was. When you suddenly told us to stop, I thought Bluebeard himself had appeared.”

“Well, nonetheless, it lifted the mood. Drop the light-heartedness, Kay. Focus is key.”

“Understood, Tale hyung. Paladins! Let’s go!” (To be continued…)
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Was it because it had been struck by an arrow that the mummy’s previously quickened pace had once again slowed, child-like in its movements?

Kijung, Tale, and Jin Gonggong, who had transformed into a bear, among other close-combat fighters, ran towards it with tensed nerves.

Could it suddenly leap and increase its speed? Would it not unleash a massive swing attack like Toon, or reveal a secret technique by fully unwrapping its bandages?

Even amidst a slight moment of carelessness, Kijung, who was responsible for protecting everyone, remained sharply attentive to the mummy’s movements.

“Tale-hyungnim, I’m counting on you to land the first punch!”

Consequently, Kijung’s primary move was to deploy Tale.

“Hmph, a preemptive strike. But, taking the initiative is a long-established formula for victory, 『Flash Strike』!”

With a swift, sliding step to circle to the mummy’s flank, his sword momentarily gleamed.

No one managed to catch the swift action of him drawing his sword and slicing through the mummy’s forearm tendon.

Only after Tale retreated did the severed bandages flutter down from the cut.

“Umm-gah”

“Hey, no reaction-”

“Kwooooar!”

“Keke, go wild, crazy bear!”

Interrupting Tale, the one to charge at the mummy was Jin Gonggong, the bear.

Biyemi, who had been riding atop Jin Gonggong, quickly jumped down and sprinkled something onto his claws.

“Ku, Kwoar!”

With a hissing sound, Jin Gonggong’s claws immediately turned a violent shade of black, and he began to swipe ferociously.

This was a newly practiced joint attack pattern between the physically fragile venom mage Biyemi and the physically robust druid Jin Gonggong!


“Kwoar, Kwoar, Kwoar!”

Whoosh, Jin Gonggong’s paws seemed to ravage the mummy, grabbing at the bandages, seemingly about to rip off its arm, and finally flinging it away with a powerful chest thump.

“Kit, nice one, bear! Come get your antidote!”

“Kwaaaa, hurry, please, Biyemi!”

With each hit, a significant amount of poison effect was applied, enough to neutralize even the most formidable monsters with a single touch. The unfortunate thing was that besides Biyemi, all targets were susceptible to the poison effect, meaning even Jin Gonggong couldn’t last long.

Having reverted to his human form, Jin Gonggong rushed to Biyemi, looking at the downed mummy as if everything was over.

“Hmm… But, this seems… too easy?”

Kijung felt the same way.

The fallen mummy tried to stir, attempting to rise, but even that motion seemed pitifully unstable.

“It, it’s still not dead…? But, being a mummy, it’s classified under the undead attribute, right?”

“Um, so it can only be killed by a ‘Turn Undead’ or a divine skill hitting it”, he pondered.

This was understood by Biyemi and Tale, who had made successful attacks.

Given the level of damage, it should have been critical. Yet, the fact it could still move indicated their attacks weren’t fully effective.

“Phew, easy yet tricky”, sighed Bobae, as she released another arrow.

The arrow lodged into the head of the just-rising creature.

“Wait… what just happened?”

That’s when the remarkable occurred.

“Bobae, what kind of arrow was that? A skill?”

“Huh? What arrow? It was just an attack”, she replied.

“No, that thing—it’s absorbing the energy from the attack!”


In some cases, an elemental skill can be absorbed, but that usually requires the caster to be of a significantly higher level, making it a rare sight. Moreover, Bobae’s attack was classified as a ‘physical attack.’

To absorb that?

“Paladins, holy Shield!”

Haaaah!

At Kijung’s command, the paladins’ swords simultaneously flashed.

Having already buffed and encircled the mummy, they were ready to strike.

“Let’s go all at once! Chargeeee!”

With Kijung’s lead, fifteen elite paladins charged forward together. In a place with no escape, surrounded from all directions, even from 16 points around, their swords, coated with divine power, pierced through the air! Did the mummy anticipate their attack? It didn’t move. However, its gaze was unmistakably fixed on Kijung.

“Ugh, what a creepy creature! Just die already!”

Kijung scowled, forcefully thrusting his sword. As Kijung’s sword dug into the mummy, so did the swords of fifteen paladins, making the mummy resemble a pitiful thing skewered by sixteen swords in total. Yet, it remained motionless, not even turning to ash or falling to the ground. The only thing that moved was its face, as bandages unwound with a whispering sound. Whoosh, whoosh! As if being undone by someone, the bandages began to unravel automatically, revealing the form beneath. The paladins frowned; what lay beneath the bandages was so decayed it was beyond recognition. Its face, devoid of hair, ears barely discernible, oozed pus and ichor, with eyes, nose, and mouth indiscernible. It was just possible to tell that these features had once been there. Kijung was looking directly at it. Despite wanting to turn away from the stench gnawing at his nose, the mummy did not permit him. 『Mas…ter…』 It began to speak. Although the hole that could be presumed its mouth didn’t move, Kijung and the paladins clearly heard it.

“Found…”

A shiver ran down Kijung from head to toe. He could just make out the few words it managed to utter, filling in the gap himself: Master Kay, found.

“Ahhhh, ahhhh! What the hell is this! Attack! Everyone, attack!” 『Holy Strike』 『Light of Ahlo』 On Kijung’s command, the paladins launched a renewed attack. Their swords flashed, plunging into the mummy’s body once more, yet the mummy remained utterly unaffected. Despite the strong impact, the various sounds and movements of swords piercing through, the mummy displayed no reaction. Even a straw dummy at a training school for beginners would have shown more impact.

“Damn, what is this!”

Kijung tried to withdraw his sword, but in that moment, the mummy’s bandages twined around it.

“Damn it – cut the bandages!” 『Flaming Ascension Sword Technique』!”

Whoosh! Suddenly, Tale’s sword sliced through the gap between Kijung’s sword and the mummy’s bandages. A thick ball of flame far larger than the swung sword burned the bandages away. Despite the complex and difficult situation, Tale managed with no great difficulty.

“Kijung, are you okay!”

“Ta, Tale! It… it mentioned my name!”

“Your name?”


Hyein was also quick to act. 『Reverse Gravity』!”

Gravity reversal magic! Hyein promptly finished casting, planting her staff into the ground. The mummy briefly writhed, stopping its movements as a pale violet light rippled in all directions.

“Huh? What’s this?”

Normally, the reversed gravity would have the mummy flailing in the air. But this one…

“The skill…”

“The skill seems ineffective. Damn, I have no idea what’s happening.”

Kijung instinctively knew.

“This is no ordinary monster.”

It absorbed Bobae’s Arrow.

Even the paladins, using their skills to attack after the initial strike, could not halt the creature advancing towards Kijung.

The same was true for Tale’s flaming sword, dancing through the air.

Unperturbed by the flames, as if the fire scarcely bothered it, the creature continued its advance towards Kijung, paying no heed to the bandages wrapped around its body, even as they caught fire.

And Hyein’s skill didn’t affect it either!

What did this mean?

“Everyone, fall back! Retreat!”

Kijung shouted loudly.

However, there was no one quick to step back from the monster, despite it offering no counterattack.

By their very nature, they were more comfortable with charging in! Orders to retreat were inevitably met with reluctance. Yet, that changed momentarily when Tale’s flaming sword revealed the mummy’s full form, causing everyone, down to every last person, to halt their movements.

“This is…”

Tale himself stepped back. Inside the bandages was not the body of a grown man.

Eyes and noses mashed together haphazardly, a twitching mouth; an indescribable entity’s head, arms, legs…

Kijung thought.

It seemed as though countless creatures had been killed, burned, melted, and then melded together to form one entity, as if this mass had been shaped into a form resembling that of a human.

“Look”,

“Ugh, that’s, the smell-”

“Quits… indeed.”

Suddenly, eyes appeared on the human torso-shaped ‘thing’, indiscernible whether it was a body or something else.

“Eyes?!”

Upon seeing it, Kijung felt: this was not a monster they could oppose.

“Run, everyone! 『Sacrifice』!”

~

It was a matter of milliseconds. No sooner had a light burst from Kijung’s body than a dark mass began to swell from the creature’s body.

The players nearby all witnessed the massive dark mass, seemingly trying to break free from ‘it’, suddenly swell explosively.

“What is that…?”

“Quick! Hyein, take everyone to Juma City now! Bobae, don’t look back and use the crystal ball!”

“Kijung?”

“We can’t last long—this one’s stronger than Toon! No, it’s incomparable to Toon, Rubini-nim! Run now!”

Unable to look back, Kijung had surrendered everything to a skill that prevented the enemy from performing any action—『Sacrifice』.

Thanks to that, the unidentified creature had paused its actions momentarily.

“Quickly! Once Sacrifice ends, we’re all done for—! It’s over the moment that explodes—!”

“Could it be, Kay… That thing?”

“If you’ve noticed, then run, Hyein hyung, you idiot! All paladins, return to the Vatican immediately! Issue a first-class emergency!”

Kijung shouted at the top of his lungs. The paladins did not wait any longer.

With Kijung’s command, they all activated their crystal balls.

Tale, Biyemi, Jin Gonggong, and the other members from Byulcho also hurried their preparations to return.

As Kijung shouted, they too realized something.

However, only two people besides Kijung had completely understood the identity of ‘it’ here.

Rubini, who had glimpsed the true nature of ‘it’ from the start.

And Hyein, who had logically deduced the identity of ‘it.’

“Kay, I’m taking you with us.”

“You’re wrong. I have to die once. I absolutely can’t run away. If I stay, everyone dies! Just run—run away to the Vatican! Hurry!”

“No, but that’s not-”

“Kijung-ssi! If we die like this-” (To be continued..…)
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Kijung raised his voice. After a moment of thought, Hyein finally bit her lower lip.

“Understood… I’m sorry, Kay.”

Hyein stood behind Bobae and immediately planted her staff into the ground. Bobae’s attempt to speak to Kijung dissolved instantly.

“I was too complacent, damn it, Leeha hyung!”

Kijung regretted it. He should have called from the beginning. The most reliable helper was logged in, yet he hadn’t called him. Still, he had to convey it. Even if it were the last thing, he had to convey it.

“Hyung! Hyung! Listen carefully! Leeha: Huh? Kijung? 『Hol-d, die-』 Swoosh At that moment, the skill Sacrifice was deactivated. Having lost all his health, Kijung’s vision was dyed in darkness. But he thought it was rather fortunate. After all, it was better than witnessing the dark mass that burst from “that thing” and the entities that flowed from there. Kijung sent one last whisper to Leeha. Kijung:Ghibrid- Kijung: Ghibrid- Leeha: Kijung! Kijung?

“Why so?”

“Oh, no, just a moment.”

Leeha, who was roaming near the Ezwen Papacy, hurriedly opened the friends window. Master Kay was now in a logged-out state.

“What? What’s all this about? Ghibrid?”

-Bobae! Biyemi! Jin Gonggong! Hyein! What happened? Kijung was urgently calling me- “Why are you bothering about that now? The meeting is happening tomorrow.”

“I know that, but, lau-”

Suddenly, Leeha paused due to the rush of incoming whispers.

“Hm?”

Swooooosh…! At that moment, the square of the Ezwen Papacy was bathed in a pale light, drawing everyone’s gaze momentarily. Normally, this place wasn’t even a Warp Gate, nor was it common for someone to teleport directly to the square. It meant that the individuals were those with a certain level of authority in the Ezwen Church State.

“Hey, it’s Hyein! Oh, and there, what’s that, Paladins! But where did Kijung go-”

Leeha recognized them. Paladins who traveled with Kijung, the sage of Byulcho, Hyein. However, despite Leeha waving and greeting them, no one looked back at him. …’What’s happening? They’re ignoring me.”

They were hurrying into the Vatican, nothing more. Despite the barrage of messages Leeha received from other members of Byulcho, they were mostly emotional and confused communications, lacking any substantial information that could be of help.

“What’s happening?”


“Oh, I just got a message from Byulcho.”

“What did it say?”

“Something about Ghibrid, this and that. Suddenly all this fuss about Ghibrid? Eh, what’s going on?”

Leeha tilted his head, puzzled. But something was odd. If the quest had been completed, shouldn’t Kijung, the person directly involved, be the one entering the Vatican? But the only ones entering were Sage Hyein and the paladins who were assisting Kijung. It didn’t make sense for the quest to end without the main party, Kijung! “No, wait, that’s not right.”

Amidst the flood of emotional chatter, the rush of Hyein and the paladins into the Vatican, and the sudden cut-off of Kijung’s messages alongside an unexpected logout.

“Could it be!”

“What is it?”

“No, nevermind. Something’s odd—no, does that even make sense? What exactly is happening?”

Caught in a situation that didn’t add up, Leeha was utterly confused. Though she wanted to log out immediately and call Kijung, time was pressing on her as well. There were less than 14 hours left until the meeting’s commencement in the Middle Earth timeframe. She needed to discreetly gather information about the meeting’s location and attendees within that time frame. However, the little information Leeha and Kidd had managed to glean while circling near the Ezwen Papacy for about two hours was hardly sufficient, leaving her in no position of comfort.

Leeha attempted to send a message to Hyein, only to receive a “We’ll talk later” in response.

“Damn it.”

As Leeha was about to dash into the Vatican, Kidd grabbed her by the collar.

“Where do you think you’re going? Do you understand what might happen if you walk into the Vatican now?”

“I’m curious about the situation you’re caught up in, but I won’t ask further. If it’s more important than your life, then go ahead”, Kidd said, glaring fiercely at Leeha. Leeha saw such a look in Kidd’s eyes for the first time.

“Right… he said he’d tell me later, so he’ll explain it then.”

What could he possibly do by following Hyein in now? Scanning the surroundings while waiting for Hyein’s response was the priority.

“Hm. You’re slightly better in such situations than Luger, I appreciate that.”

“What? Appreciate?”

“Well— Ahem, I mean, it’s somewhat a relief. By the way, there seem to be many unfamiliar faces around. The atmosphere is quite different from usual Ezwen Papacy.”

Kidd, pressing down his hat, hurried ahead. Leeha, following with a chuckle, made sure not to forget her hood again.


“Definitely. Though the meeting tomorrow is supposed to be a secret, it has likely spread among the courts of various countries.”

“Indeed. There’s no end to people’s desire to infiltrate the church and gather information.”

Is there ever such a thing as a perfect secret? The main reason for the turmoil was the repeated delays of the meeting. Had Fernand convened the meeting immediately upon visiting the nations, it wouldn’t have come to this. However, minis and Fibiel requested postponements due to their respective circumstances, leading to the meeting only being barely convened tomorrow, fifteenth days after the initial summons.

“What about those who look like threats? Among them might be someone targeting you.”

Leeha, scanning the surroundings, inquired Kidd. But those who appeared suspicious seemed reasonably skilled themselves. As Leeha and Kidd felt their gazes converge, the figures shrouded in hoods vanished from the surroundings in an instant.

“It’s impossible to track every single one of them. What about the marks?”

“I’ve marked three from the left. What about Kidd?”

Hiding in alleyways was futile against Leeha and Kidd’s tracking. The 『Marking』 skill was possessed by both, and the Ezwen maps, though expensive, were not beyond their means to acquire. The duo unfolded a map in the alley, surveying the suspicious individuals’ tracks.

“I’ve marked four from the right. Are there only three?”

“No, it’s not that! I’m prioritizing those we’re certain of! Plus, we’ve been discussing potential ties with Fernand.”

“……Has there been any contact?”

Kidd’s playful expression turned stern once more. One of Leeha’s contacts, the Pioneer King Fernand. Headed to summon this assembly, he was favored by the Pope and direct recipient of letters addressed to Browless. Leeha conjectured that Fernand’s attendance at this meeting was likely, meaning he would possess much of the information they sought.

“He won’t disclose everything, but he won’t keep it completely secret either.”

If someone targeted Browless’s life, it would equate to inciting a major disturbance within the Ezwen territory; it could even mean the Pope’s life was in danger. Despite disliking complications, fernand, entrusted with protecting the Pope’s life, couldn’t just remain silent, Leeha conjectured.

“Hmm… strange. Do you see this, the gathering here?”

“I see it. My 71 and your 72, 73 are all heading in the same direction.”

“Three out of five marked ones are suspicious… We have a good hunch, don’t we?”

Leeha nudged Kidd as they looked at the map. What remained was to follow them and uncover their true identities.

“Could they be Bluebeard’s minions? Shinobigumi? Yamato? Or a third faction?”

As they pondered the unknown enemy, an alert suddenly appeared before Leeha and Kidd. 『Congratulations are in order! The first-ever Cardinal of Middle Earth has emerged!』 『Cardinal Kay, Holy Knight, affiliated with the Fibiel nation』


『All Fibiel nation users gain a 3% increase in affinity with the Ezwen church.』 『We hope other users will strive not to fall behind!』 The distinction between players and NPCs became immediately clear to those walking around the Ezwen Papacy; anyone surprised by the hologram message before them was a player, Leeha and Kidd included.

“Master Kay – a Cardinal? Holy Knight?”

Kidd looked perplexedly at Leeha, who had no strength to explain in detail as all the information they had gathered flashed through his mind. Leeha: Hyein! This- Hyein: Yes, that’s correct. Ghibrid has awakened. In a rush, Leeha messaged Hyun. Having completed ‘all that was necessary’ at the Papacy, Hyein now had the leisure to calmly explain to Leeha. Leeha: And did Kijung really become a Holy Knight? Hyein: Not complete, rather, it’s incredibly unstable. Leeha: You saw Ghibrid? Hyein: Kay used 『Sacrifice』 so we could all escape while he was restrained. Leeha: Ah…Ah Leeha could imagine Kijung’s final moments. As Ghibrid’s name was invoked, resulting in a forced logout, that must have marked the end of 『Sacrifice』s duration. Hyein and Bobae managed a quick escape, predicting and being certain of this eventuality. When neither Byulcho nor Paladin’s attacks had any effect, combining Rubini and Kijung’s reactions, he realized ‘it’ was indeed Ghibrid. Could he just run away? If Kijung, having used 『Sacrifice』, remained and was killed by Ghibrid, wouldn’t all quests be in vain? That wasn’t it. Rather, Kijung was the first to notice this point, essentially hinting at it to ensure Hyein and Bobae could return safely.

(To be continued…)
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“We’re now irrelevant to the Holy Knight Quest! You know what that means, right?”

That is to say, if Ghibrid awakened in an incomplete form?

What were the conditions for the success of the Holy Knight quest? The conditions for failure!

Hyein felt an intuition of the quest’s success at that moment.

Regardless of the completion rate, there was a belief that as long as they could report to the Papacy in a logical and rational manner that Ghibrid had awakened ‘incomplete’, the quest would undoubtedly be cleared. Hyein shared the details of their conversation at the time with Leeha.

Hyein: Kay hadn’t thought that far… but I prioritized the quest’s success and returned to Juma City with Bobae.

Leeha: Surely, Hyein, you’re the best person to handle such a matter. Then what about Kijung…?

Hyein: He got annihilated by Ghibrid.

Hyein and Leeha did not continue their conversation.

Leeha: Let’s logout for a moment to make a call.

Hyein: Ah, there’s also good news, so I’ll logout now to contact you. I’ve already asked Jin Gonggong to head to Kay’s last location within our guild.

Leeha: The location – oh, for dropped items?

Hyein: We might not know what’s there but we should collect whatever we can. After all, Kay is our guild master.

Leeha: Haha, now he is also the 『Cardinal of Demon Hunting』 and a 『Holy Knight』. We ought to make a good impression on Kijung.

“It was a judgment calm and quick enough to remind one of a ‘former guild master.'”

“And yet, he doesn’t brag about what he did right. In a way, it’s truly remarkable.”

Leeha nodded in agreement to Hyein’s thoughts.

However, the one who was truly admiring was Hyein.

Hyein: The last person Kay sought was Leeha-ssi, didn’t he say anything?


Leeha: What?

Hyein: He asked me to communicate everything. That the current guild master, master Kay, the 『Cardinal of Demon Hunting』 and 『Holy Knight』, relies on you the most.

Leeha: Me?

Hyein was not unaware of Kijung and Leeha’s relationship. However, it wasn’t his place to recklessly share all these details without Kijung’s permission.

From the moment Hyein agreed to share everything, the underlying condition was that “Kijung had already given his permission”, but Leeha, overwhelmed by the circumstances, had failed to deduce this far.

Hyein: Haha, isn’t it obvious? Aside from being cousins, you are 『Toon Slayer』 and the strategist behind the 『Use of Mystical creatures in Resistance Operations』. It would be odd not to rely on him. Oh, since Kay has changed class to Holy Knight, we’ll have to start planning in ten days.

Leeha: Ahhh, right. Didn’t expect it to come to this so soon.

Hyein: There’s no one else but Leeha-ssi for this task. So, I’ll be trusting you.

To trust. To rely upon.

Hyein’s words, though light and smiling, made Leeha feel a certain tightness in his chest.

“Looking at your expression, it seems things have gone well. No, the fact that your ‘dongsaeng’ has become Cardinal and a Holy Knight seems to be quite an achievement”, Kidd didn’t inquire further about Leeha’s musings.

Leeha preferred Kidd’s approach, who didn’t press for more but listened, over anyone else’s.

“Well, it’s not so much that things have gone smoothly, but rather, another troublesome matter has cropped up. Let’s hurry and catch up with those people.”

Leeha smiled.

Kijung had become a Holy Knight.

The reconnection period is ten days later in Middle Earth’s time.

Leeha thought it was time to think of a gift to give Kijung until then, as he started to chase the marked targets on the map.

“Let’s start by checking this out first. Character window?”

Then, he opened the character window. Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 246 (92.8%) Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 142 HP: 8,180 (5,726) MP: 2,430 Stats: Strength 675 (+590) Agility 4,000 (+1,382) Intelligence 488 (+299) Stamina 291 (+198) Mind 125 (+115) Remaining Stat Points: 0 There was no change in level. However, by successfully completing the quest to acquire the Curve Shot skill and obtaining the achievement “Rising Rookie”, along with being inducted into the hall of fame for S-rank achievements, he earned 18 and 36 stat points respectively, which he then distributed between Agility and Intelligence.

“Ha, having 4,000 in Agility feels good no matter when I see it.”


Of course, he didn’t open the character window just to feel good about his stats. What Leeha intended to do now was to tail someone, and naturally, he would have to use his Agility stats most efficiently.

“Stat Detail Adjustment: Agility! 100%… might be too much, maybe around 70%?”

One must be prepared for any unforeseen situation. But, if he applies 70% to a single stat of 4,000? That would still be plenty. Casual players and most users wouldn’t even catch a glimpse of Leeha’s shadow. The architecture of the capital of the Ezwen Papacy was a bit different from other nations. Unlike the usual structure with an inner wall and a palace-fortress within the capital, the Vatican was almost entirely open. Thus, at the beginning of the chase, it was not difficult to follow the targets. The harder part was avoiding the eyes of the patrol guards around the Vatican Square. But how long had it been since they began to tail the targets when their movements started to become suspicious?

“Here they come!”

“I see them, move back, quickly!”

Following Kidd’s words, Leeha began to run swiftly. The dots on the map closed in at an astonishing speed, but as long as he could clearly see their movements, there was no chance of being caught. Unless their speed was just average.

“Into that door over there!”

Kidd rushed into what seemed to be a shop, with Leeha sliding in after him. Bang! As soon as they closed the door, the targets turned the corner, entering the alley where Leeha and Kidd had been.

“Ha, ha, how are we doing?”

“Still… just a moment longer.”

The targets lingered at the entrance of the alley and then started moving again. They did not come all the way to where Leeha and Kidd were hiding.

“Haaaa… Phew.”

Both men sighed in relief.

“Crazy, how did they get so fast!? If we hadn’t adjusted the details, we would’ve been caught.”

Leeha was not the only one surprised. Kidd, who prided himself on not being outdone by anyone in terms of movement, was visibly flustered. Who are these people? How could they possibly match the movements of Leeha and Kidd, who are among the top even among outsiders?

“Well, that’s what we’re trying to figure out by following them.”

Leeha felt his legs go weak and had to put strength into his calves to stand.

“But how do they know? Did they see us?”

They had maintained a good distance from their tracking targets. They had never been exposed in a straight line. They intended to not reveal themselves until they clearly understood their goal, or until they arrived at a presumed secret meeting place or hideout.

“But how did they catch on?”


Leeha and Kidd were just one corner behind the targets. However, the targets seemed to pretend to turn the corner but would suddenly stop when Leeha and Kidd tried to follow, or even, as now, quickly run in the opposite direction, namely towards where Leeha and Kidd are likely to be. Could they really do that just based on a hunch? Leeha suddenly had an ominous feeling. He carefully opened the store door and peeked out to survey the surroundings.

“What’s going on?”

“A tail on our tail? We’re not being followed, are we?”

As Leeha carefully looked around, Kidd shook his head. There was no sign of it.

“I had been suspecting it myself for a while too.”

“Hmm, that sounds a bit like a lie but anyway… How did they find out then? If they used a scroll to prevent marking, the skill wouldn’t have worked in the first place.”

The skill had definitely taken effect. Using a scroll now was meaningless. It prevents, not releases.

“No, I can’t say I figured it out clearly, but is it just a sense of unease? As if someone feels like they’re being followed, perhaps.

“We’ll reach the outer wall if we go a little further. There will be no more alleys. It’s time to make a decision.”

Whether to chase them down and reveal their identity completely, or to continue following them from behind and let them go. If they hadn’t sensed anything, one might pretend to be a passerby or a novice hunting outside the city, taking the opportunity to observe their faces and attire.

But now, they are suspicious that someone is trailing behind them.

“They’ll probably choose the least crowded paths. It’s dangerous to come across them recklessly. Fortunately, we have a ‘sniper’ here.”

Leeha made a quick decision,

“Let them go.”

“You mean just let them go?”

“We can’t just let them go. I’ll climb up the city wall and watch them from there. Kidd, draw the attention of the guards near the wall for me.”

“Why is it always me who has to do the annoying stuff…”

“Huh? Or you could do it. But knowing they’re being followed, they’ll sprint away as soon as they get past the wall, creating a huge gap. Do you think you can keep up without being noticed? We have to protect Colonel Browless.”

“… Who’s complaining? I’ll draw their attention.”

Kidd took out the 『Crimson Geckos』. The shop owner gasped in alarm, but Leeha and Kidd paid no mind and stepped out of the building. They had reached near the city gate in no time.

Leeha and Kidd followed them as well. And the moment they stepped outside the city gate, a series of gunshots rang out.

“What’s this!?”

“Drop your weapons! What do you think you’re doing in the capital of our kingdom?”

“We have no intention of hurting anyone.”

“Put down your weapon now and raise your hands in the air!”

The local securities and the city gate guards started surrounding Kidd in an instant. As soon as they left the gate, there was a shadow climbing over the city wall, but no one noticed it.

Opening the trio’s friend window, Kidd confirmed Leeha’s location had changed to ‘on top of the Ezwen papal city wall’ before swiftly escaping.

If Kidd, with movements nearly as agile as Leeha’s, decided to escape with all his might, it would be impossible for the local securities and the city gate guards to catch him.

『Eagle’s Eye』, 『Mana Clairvoyance』.”

After spotting Kidd running away, Leeha activated his skills and took out Black Bass. There was no longer any need to look at the map.

The group moving away swiftly from the main road and heading somewhere quickly caught Leeha’s eyes immediately.

“Who are you guys?”

Incredible speed!

Leeha alternated between using the Eagle’s Eye and the scope to follow them. They were running at a fast pace towards a small forest on the left side of the road.

With that kind of speed, unless one keeps their head down while running, the hood is bound to come off.

The fluttering cloaks couldn’t completely conceal their attire either.

At least, that was the case for two of them.

“White hair, sports cut, scar over the left eye, no guild mark visible, several daggers at the waist.”

“Light Brown short hair, fair skin, a clean face, no guild mark visible, carrying two wands simultaneously?”

(To be continued…)
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It wasn’t difficult to discern their characteristics by observing them. However, the last one was gripping his hood and running. With his right hand pressing down on his hood, his face was not visible.

“Damn, the last person—I’m not sure. A sword. I can see a sword hilt sticking out from the left side of his waist, but other than that…” The movement feels subtly unnatural. The fact that the left side of the cloak was fluttering excessively caught my eye, but that was all. They disappeared into the forest.

“Tch.”

Leeha let out a click of his tongue. He was only disappointed that he hadn’t been able to extract perfect information, especially after having shouted at Kidd.

‘But it’s not over yet.’

Leeha still had some leads left. If he could reveal the identities of at least two, he could also uncover the yet unknown last one. Leeha sent a quick message to Ram Hwayeon. What if it’s not enough? There’s always the Holy Grail.

Now, only 12 hours were left.

※ ※ ※

“If it’s an outsider who uses multiple daggers, the most famous one is the ‘Happy Marten.’

He’s skilled at fighting without closing the distance with his opponent, even from 15m away. But white hair? A scar? I haven’t heard of such features. He’s a young guy with narrow eyes.”

“Hmm, so not him, then… Is there no one among the rankers? What about the person who uses two wands?”

“Nope. Among outsiders or among rankers, there’s no one with the features you described. Well, if we look lower, there might be someone.”

“We obviously have to look lower!”

“Aha, you? At your level of 100-200, why worry about finding an opponent?”

“Uh, well… It’s comforting to hear you say that.”

Ram Hwayeon spoke indifferently, but Leeha felt somewhat at a loss, as if he didn’t know what to do with himself.

‘Praise? No, it sounds like praise, but there’s something—this feeling, what is it?!’

Was it because it had been a while since he last spoke to Ram Hwayeon? Excitement? Thrill?

“I’m just telling the truth. You’re asking me because you actually feel threatened, right?”


“Huh? Oh, yeah. How did you know?”

“It’s obvious. You only look for me when you need me. I’m just like an internet search to you. Now, you don’t even visit, just a quick message.”

Of course, that wasn’t the case. Ram Hwayeon had been thoroughly irritated with Leeha for not keeping in touch more regularly.

The feeling that it was praise yet not praise, straddling the boundary of mockery and commendation, had struck because of that.

Suddenly, it hit Leeha like a bolt of lightning.

“No way! Oh, I didn’t tell you? Among the spoils I brought back from Toon, there was something perfect for you, Ram Hwayeon. I forgot to give it to you.”

“Huh? What? What is it?”

“Well, it’s…”

“What is it?”

Leeha hastily opened his bag. Something useful for Ram Hwayeon? He couldn’t possibly have thought to bring something like that!

However, driven by a survival instinct (?), he blurted it out without thinking!

“Ah, right, you asked for a claw, didn’t you!? Not a fingernail, but a toenail! There’s a toenail, and, well, firstly, there’s a toenail and—meat! There’s meat. Toon meat, have you ever tasted dinosaur meat? I’ve smoked it to perfection! I extended its preservation period just to bring it to you, Ram Hwayeon!”

Leeha rummaged through his bag. There was no smoked meat to be found. Only a piece of nearly spoiled raw meat was emitting a faint smell.

Yet, he lacked the courage to speak the truth.

“…Really?”

“Of course! I’ll, I’ll go soon. Yeah. Soon.”

Ram Hwayeon’s voice suddenly became meek. As if she were watching him, Leeha answered, nodding his head vigorously.

“Okay, I’ll wait. After all, within Castle Dale’s inner office, it’s only you, Hwajung who’s saved, and me.”

“Huh?”

“Never mind! Make sure to contact me the day before you come! If you don’t, I’ll kill you!”


“What? What?”

Just when it seemed her voice had calmed, it rose in tone once again. Leeha couldn’t understand what had suddenly changed.

“Kidd! I’ll head to Gaza City first, so find a good time to slip away!”

“Gaza City? Why there-”

“There are a couple of things I need to check out… And I’ve also received a message from Fernand-ssi. I’ll meet him there and then head to the Academy, so you go on ahead.”

Leeha planned to visit the Holy Grill. One reason was to request investigation into the identities of suspicious individuals.

And the other was…

“How should one cook the meat of a Torhon to make it the most delicious? Dinosaurs – uh, can it be used similarly to chicken? Aren’t dinosaurs like ancestors to chickens anyway?”

Leeha decided on Gaza City’s Holy Grill as the place to discuss matters with Fernand.

Even as he thought about the conversation to have with him there, Leeha was also fretting over how to address the careless remarks made to Ram Hwayeon.

He suddenly felt pitiable for himself. It was as if he was bound by some inevitable fate – and his face heated up at the thought alone.

“Was it impossible to find out from the Intelligence Guild as well?”

“Yes. We couldn’t detect their movements or sense if we were being followed… They definitely don’t seem like ordinary people, but we have no more information.”

They had a lot of discussions at the Holy Grill. Leeha got valuable information from Fernand, but not all was good news.

Most disappointing was the inability to guess the identity of the suspicious individuals Leeha had observed.

“I’m sorry, sir.”

“No, it’s alright. I had expected there to be some risk. Knowing that risk is real is enough. You both have worked hard.”

Browless patted Leeha and Kidd on the shoulders, acknowledging their effort. His words weren’t wrong.

Knowing who was targeting them would be good, but it wasn’t crucial. If they knew ‘someone’ was after them, they could be cautious the next day without much trouble.

‘But it’s not enough for us. I don’t think anything will happen to Headmaster Browless, but-‘


‘The quest being dropped means it shouldn’t be taken lightly.’

Fortunately, Leeha had some compensating information.

The materials provided by Fernand included not only information about the location of tomorrow’s meeting, but also a list of attendees from various countries.

“From Fibiel, including His Majesty the King, the Headmaster, the Guard Captain, and the Chief Mage Rotzak will attend. Only one attendant is coming with them.”

“His Majesty is coming all the way to Ezwen, and with only one person? That’s incredibly hard to believe.”

“Yes. But it seems Minis and Shazrashian accepted the situation similarly. Perhaps it’s because the Pope’s decree is considered supreme.”

Leeha pondered over the list provided by Fernand.

Something has happened! The attendees from Fibiel always gave off that feeling, so there was nothing unusual.

“Rotzak… Rotzak once blocked Headmaster Browless’s trip to the New Continent.”

Kidd had mentioned it, and even Browless himself had told him. Even using the excuse of a royal summon, Browless was taken to the palace and after several excuses were made, was simply sent back.

Browless was enraged enough to almost forget his rank and charge at Rotzak. It was an incident of such magnitude.

“And Elizabeth, she’s deeply connected with Brown. One of the most critical figures.”

The king of Minis was naturally in attendance, but another individual’s name who was attending stood out conspicuously.

“The Fox of the Prairie, ewin. He’s closely related to Chiyou.”

Fernand had passed on some information.

The concern in the Ezwen Theocracy was Browless’s “defection.”

Both the Second Human-Demon War and the assassinations that Browless was well-known for, if letters from his former comrades led him to become part of the Demon King’s Army, not a single high-ranking individual on the continent could sleep soundly even for a day.

“Kidd and I thought it was all nonsensical…”

But such thoughts were only possible because they were users who had trained under Browless. Indeed, even Fernand, with whom Leeha had conversed, considered the possibility of Browless’s defection to some extent.

“If Elizabeth and Brown are indeed trying to make Headmaster Browless change sides-”

The content of the letter itself might be nonsensical. Among those attending the meeting tomorrow, there might be a dangerous individual attempting to approach Browless, trying to deliver a different message.

Under such scrutiny, it wouldn’t be an exaggeration to consider all individuals close to Chiyou as a dangerous entity.

Kidd: “But that alone is not enough.”

Leeha: “Hmm?”

Kidd: “What if Elizabeth and Brown are actually urging him to cross over to the new continent? If so, declaring Headmaster Browless a traitor and attacking him there would make those shouting for justice the most dangerous.

Leeha: “Ah, I see that perspective… No, wait, then what about the suspicious individuals we saw today? If they’re shouting for justice, would they really skulk around hooded, attending that meeting?

Kidd: “Maybe they’re planning to ambush the Headmaster without attending the meeting… Ah-those claiming justice are doing so?”

Leeha: “Hmm… It seems we might be stretching it too far, Kidd.”

While conversing with Browless, Leeha and Kidd kept exchanging ideas through whisper. The quest’s ambiguous content and the perplexing situation were leading them into a labyrinth.

Thoughts would shift depending on the perspective; every angle seemed both right and wrong. In a situation where logic could not prevail, Leeha and Kidd found it impossible to come up with a clear answer.

“Are you staying here for the night? I think I need to head back.”

“Ah, yes. Headmaster, you should get some rest. You need to leave early in the morning.”

“We’ll stay a bit longer before leaving.”

“Alright, understood.”

Browless packed his belongings and left the academy. Leeha and Kidd couldn’t part ways just yet. Unable to find an answer, parting was difficult. In the end, there was only one option from the start.

Leeha and Kidd spread out the map of Ezwen once again. The significantly zoomed-in location wasn’t perfectly marked on the map. The geography within the Vatican was a strictly guarded secret for security reasons.

Upon that spot, Leeha took out another piece of paper and placed it on top.

“Indeed, is this the situation?”

(To be continued…) 
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“Yes, this is the seating arrangement.”

The seating and location plan within the conference room provided by Fernand!

Kidd quickly scanned it with his eyes.

“The arrangement is centered around the headmaster. The windows are quite large, but it seems difficult to aim from there.”

Leeha was comparing the inside of the map, while Kidd focused on the exterior of the Vatican, each making their comparisons.

From which position, where, and how to cover to ensure Headmaster Browless is most safely protected?

“Certainly, even if I attach a silencer, huh… To get a clear shot, you’d need to be at least this far. The commercial area might help muffle the sound a bit, but I’m not sure if it would reach as high as the third floor. Kidd, what about you? Is a silent shooting range possible?”

“It’s unlikely.”

“Well, it would have to be within a 100m limit, which is already a lot. Then you-”

Suddenly, a new idea flashed through Leeha’s mind. Silent shooting means that even someone right next to you can’t hear the gunshot.

Excluding the ignition noise when the firing pin hits the bullet, it’s almost as if there’s no sound at all. Moreover, it wasn’t a skill that used mana.

“Id?”

“Why are you suddenly laughing like that?”

“Certainly… It seems you’ll have no choice but to protect the headmaster.”

Leeha smiled.

It was uncertain how effective it would be, but for now, there were no other options. After all, it was impossible to protect Browless with long-distance sniping alone. If the enemy’s identity couldn’t be pinpointed? They had to infiltrate a place they supposedly couldn’t. By whatever means necessary.

The next morning, when Browless briefly stopped by the academy, Leeha and Kidd were already gone.

『”We will be at the Vatican.”』

Discovering the note, Browless sighed and immediately prepared to visit the palace. Finally, the day to open the letters from Elizabeth and Brown had arrived.


The Vatican was bustling from the morning.

Partly because the square in front of the Vatican and the road leading to it were being controlled.

“As expected. I knew it would be like this from morning. Even if it’s done in secret, they wouldn’t teleport directly inside the Vatican.”

“There’s no way Ezwen would allow that.”

Leeha agreed.

So, they thought of setting up a temporary secure passage to use, even if just for a day.

Leeha watched, eating an apple.

“Among those attending this meeting, only Fernand is confirmed to be a player. There’s a possibility that a retinue member coming from Minis could be a player, but… it’s still unknown.”

Middle Earth proceeds with any scenario as long as it involves at least one player. This was something Leeha was well aware of.

Meaning, whether or not Minis’s retinue members were players, the meeting would proceed as long as Fernand was attending.

Moreover, the likelihood of this meeting having a significant impact on Middle Earth’s main storyline was very high. What the risk factor might be is unclear.

However, whatever it may be, Middle Earth was on the verge of a major upheaval. Leeha and Kidd premised their thoughts on this content.

Shwaaaaaaaa shriek

Although completely shielded from the outside view, it couldn’t entirely eliminate the leaking light.

For the first time, the light faintly flashed. As he was enjoying his snack, Leeha promptly set down the snail he was holding.

“Ah, the first guest has arrived.”

He didn’t particularly care which nation had arrived first. After all, one by one, other nations would continue to make their appearance now.

“Maybe I should find a good spot too. Let’s go!”

Black Bass was wrapped up in cloth, rolled up tightly. Holding the long stick-like Black Bass, Leeha walked slowly. Any suspicious behavior was out of the question.

Even if silencers and subsonic bullets were to be used, the place Leeha had to position himself was atop a chimney of a store located in a commercial area. From there, aiming into the internal workings of the Vatican, it would be unfavorable for him to catch the attention of EZ Users and others alike. With a relaxed pace, Leeha walked while even humming to himself.


He neither looked around suspiciously nor checked his rear.

This was because he had already checked for any “marked”

individuals before departure using the map.

None of those individuals showed up.

Was it just a false alarm…? Or did they perhaps notice the “marking” and went to their hideout to remove it?

Marking was merely a skill that marks a target within the map. Meaning, the moment they move beyond the boundaries of the zone, it’s nearly impossible to track their whereabouts because it’s unknown which “map” they might be in. Of course, there’s a way to check every single one, but there wasn’t enough time for such luxury in reality.

More so, if they managed to remove the marking after escaping?

It would be a complete waste of time, engaging in a futile task.

“Jellypong?”

『Myongmyong?』

“Launch me up to that building. I need to position myself on the chimney, and the space is going to be very tight. Wait, wait, now… 3, 2, now!”

With a swoosh, Leeha’s body was instantly catapulted into the air.

A challenging maneuver was required to land on the chimney sticking out of the fairly steeply sloped, pyramid-shaped roof, but for Jellypong and Leeha, it wasn’t too hard.

“Good.

『Camouflage』!”

The edge of the chimney was barely wider than the length of a foot. Placing one foot in front of the other, Leeha balanced himself and immediately concealed his appearance.

The secret meeting room of the Vatican was located on the third floor, but nearly no surrounding buildings reached a height of three stories.

As expected, apart from the outer walls for security reasons, the buildings were at most two stories high, making it an impossible position for sniper cover considering the surveillance and security of the area.

“This is the only way.”

Leeha unraveled the cloth around Black Bass and connected the stabilizer, then stood in a shooting stance from the chimney of the two-story building, looking towards the Vatican.


“The distance is about 950m. With the scope-”

Click!

Leeha opened the cap.

“-I see it.”

He then surveyed the interior of the secret meeting room’s window on the third floor of the Vatican.

“My goodness! It’s nearly invisible. Should I prop something under my feet?”

Looking down at his feet, Leeha shook his head. Placing anything on the very edge of the chimney, which was only as wide as a foot, was dangerous.

Rather than risk destabilizing the shot, proceeding as is was safer and more comfortable.

“Still, it’s a bit disappointing.”

Through the scope and beyond the window, all he could see was up to the shoulders. Leeha wished he could see at least from the head to the waist in one glance, but it was impossible to ask for more.

“There’s no better position than this. I have to make my move here.”

He wasn’t one to search for another spot now. Doing the best in the given situation was his way. Leeha started adjusting the scope’s clicks to match the distance.

The door opened, and individuals began to take their seats shortly thereafter.

“The Pope’s entrance… Next is the so-called chairmen, officially known as the ‘Council of Nine Cardinals.’

The chairmen sat next right to the Pope… With four to the Pope’s left and four to the right. The person seated fourth to the right of the chairman is Cardinal Romero. Thus, the figures of Ezwen are aligned, showing their backs to me in a row.”

Leeha was well aware of these figures. He was somewhat surprised that a person well-fit to be the chairman was merely a member, but Fernand mentioned that was precisely why ‘Romero didn’t assume the role of chairman.’To Romero, it meant that there were factions within the Ezwen Papacy itself that envied the concentration of power.

“The Pope wanted to appoint him as the chairman, but it was ignored due to the opposition from the resistant factions, right? He could have forcefully proceeded, but he chose to sit at the back rather than causing a division within the Papacy. Truly a grand figure with abroad heart.”

At least to Leeha, Romero could only be seen in an extremely positive light. Having shared all sorts of hardships to secure “Divine Staff”, and receiving all authority from the Pope, Romero indeed showed kindness by strongly supporting Leeha’s back. To some extent, Leeha considered Romero to be on his side.

“From now on, the people to be wary of are…”

Did all the figures from various countries arrive while Leeha was settling in? As the people from Ezwen took their seats, figures from other countries started to enter. The seats closest to Romero, that is, on the right side of the Pope if facing him, were assined to figures from Minis and Kraven.

“The Fox of the Prairie won’t make a direct appearance… But having his entourage around is problematic. There’s a person protecting the king of Minis, yet no information is available on him. All that’s known is his name.”

Minis’s entourage, “Cheka.”

It was the first time Leeha saw most people from Minis’s side, but he instantly recognized them.

“The Fox of the Prairie.”

The person being meticulously attended to by Ewin must undoubtedly be the king.

“So, that’s Cheka.”

Even in Fibiel, alongside Rotzak who was in charge of intelligence, there was the commander of the king’s guards. Normally, besides those responsible for general tasks or meeting minutes, at least one brain and one brawn were present.

“The case is the same with Kraven and Shazrashian. But with Minis…”

Leeha knew the Fox of the Prairie was formidable, being both an excellent knight and a strategist. But even so, he was just one person.

“It’s unlikely that Minis lacks capable people. Then, how should I view Ewin? As a brain or a brawn?

“The likelihood leans towards brain. After all, he’s Minis’s top strategist.”

If Ewin is considered Minis’s “Brain”, then there must be someone as the “Brawn”…

“Could it be that man?”

Leeha’s suspicion grew. The entourage, hardly recognizable with a hat pressed down far on his face, poorly followed the king.

“I’ve seen Fibiel’s entourage a few times myself. He was literally a ‘secretary who works incredibly hard.’

But Cheka… No, it’s tough to judge by appearance, but something’s off.”

Yet, it was difficult to come to an easy conclusion. Considering the security for a secret meeting at the Papacy, which even kings of countries attend, would be extremely tight. None of the figures visible to Leeha seemed to carry anything resembling a weapon. A thorough body search would have been conducted from within the Papacy, which was easily foreseeable without seeing it. Both the Fox of the Prairie, ewin, and Cheka were without any weapon, making it difficult for Leeha to distinguish between a Brainiac and a Brawler. Mana was the same. Fernand mentioned several times that no one could use magic in the Papal secret meeting room.

“Confiscating the knights’ weapons and blocking the flow of mana in that place made it difficult for anyone to carry out a violent act”, was the Papacy’s thought. Even so, Leeha couldn’t help but let out a laugh.

“Uh, then shouldn’t those giants be barred from entry from the start? Ha.”

The third group to enter, from the Shazrashian Federation, included not only humans but also giants.

“That side has a presidential system, not a monarchy. A giant president. With his strength, it seems that even the most skilled users are no match for him.”

While Leeha was calming his own tensions, the people from Fibiel began to take their seats. There were familiar faces to Leeha. The king of Fibiel, the commander of the guard, attendants carrying various documents and bundles of paper, and…

“Rotzak.”

Seeing Rotzak wearing an unusually tall hat, Leeha’s eyes gleamed.

(To be continued…)
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Indeed, he could not be anyone other than one of today’s major threats.

“Hmm~… That pattern on the hat, it looks familiar. The star, resembling the flag of Israel, is trying so hard to look cool with everything it’s got. And the vibe is just nasty.”

A star made of two interlocking triangles with a single dot beside it.

For Leeha, the strange sense of deja vu was there, but he had no energy left to focus on it. The reason was that Fernand had entered, accompanied by a representative from the Ezwen Church Nation and, finally, Browless made his entrance.

It was the beginning.

The Ezwen personnel, viewed from Leeha’s perspective.

On the right side, barely showing their faces, were the representatives of Tuvbiel and the Shazrashian Federation.

On the left, barely visible as well, were those from Minis and Kraven.

Browless took his place at the center of the table setup, which was an inverted pentagon.

Through his scope, between the back of the pope’s head and the “9 Cardinals”, Browless’s face came into full view.

“What are you looking at, Cheka?”

Ewin called out to Cheka, who was gazing outside.

Cheka’s eyes suddenly changed.

“Oh, it’s nothing, sir Ewin. I was just admiring the view. It’s been a while since I’ve seen such an open space.”

“Indeed. To think that even in the presence of His Holiness, the space is this open! The Vatican truly is the symbol of peace and love. If only this peace could last forever, as long as no strange person comes along to disrupt it.”

Ewin spoke louder, nodding his head. It seemed like he was speaking to Cheka, but his gaze was fixed on Browless.

‘… Do you consider me such a person, sir Ewin?”

“Well, how would I know, sir Browless? Today’s gathering might just serve as the verification for that.”

“Let it be, ewin. Don’t make a scene in front of His Holiness.”


Browless expressed his displeasure, but Ewin did not back down. It was the King of Minis who stopped him. Ewin lightly bowed and closed his mouth.

Browless was essentially receiving hostile looks from everyone present. Despite Ewin’s provocation, it seemed nobody from Tuvbiel intended to defend Browless.

The King couldn’t step in for the sake of appearance, and the captain of the guard was completely ignored except by the King.

“I hope today’s meeting does not solely tarnish our nation’s honor, sir Browless.”

That left no one but Lord Rotzak, who, rather than helping, seemed more interested in intensifying his attacks on Browless.

“You’ve been keeping an eye on me and yet you say that, lord Rotzak?”

“Watch! Who has been spouting such nonsense?”

“If it’s just my misunderstanding, I apologize.

‘Strange glances’ have been felt for a while now. If I remember correctly, it was a robe with the symbol of Mage Squad drawn on it…”

“That’s appalling! Even if someone from Mage Squad did that, how does it concern you? It wasn’t surveillance, merely a precaution to see if there was any threat to you! Yes, indeed.”

Rotzak quickly changed his tune in a fluster.

“… You seem quite hasty today. I wonder, is there something you shouldn’t let be revealed?”

“Whatever nonsense you plan to spit, watch your mouth, Browless.”

Rotzak’s voice dropped sharply. The glare he gave Browless was sharper than ever.

“I am the head of Mage Squad. Remember, what I say here today can change your situation drastically.”

“Of course, I am well aware, lord Rotzak. I also know that depending on what is contained in the letters sent by Elizabeth and Brown, the situation of ‘Mage Squad’s Head’ can change just as easily.”

Browless didn’t back down even a step. Although Rotzak’s brow pulsed with veins, that was as far as it went. Causing commotion in a gathering attended even by the Pope was absolutely nonsensical. Fernand barely managed to close his gaping mouth as he observed the intense nerve battle among the participants.

“Wow, such pressure. So, this is why one can control users like Leeha, Kidd, and Luger in such an atmosphere?”

Then, he glanced outside the window momentarily. He had not received any particular message from Leeha, but Fernand knew well enough that Leeha would be hiding somewhere with a view of this meeting room.

“We can’t let our guard down until we leave the Vatican, but at least no trouble will be stirred up here. All weapons were confiscated, and mana was sealed. Unless a dragon jumps out, it’s impossible.”


From the back of the assembly, facing the Pope, fernand scrutinized the attendees with an adventurer’s sharp eye. Staying in his current spot was optimal for leveraging his instincts, skills, and experience to sense danger.

“The adjutant by our side has quite substantial holy power too. Even if a commotion arises, creating a barrier would be effortless”, he thought, aware that even the Pope and Browless’s escorts from Ezwen were formidable experts.

Fernand had to shake his head as he briefly looked at one of the attendants, who was glaring at Rotzak with intense eyes. The scene made even Fernand momentarily flustered as the attendant and Rotzak locked eyes, and Rotzak found himself compelled to speak.

“…It seems the envoy from Ezwen has something to say. Apologies, but you seem unfamiliar to me. Have we met before?”

Rotzak’s words were polite, but his eyes and voice were anything but friendly. Even Fernand could feel the atmosphere of disdain as if saying, ‘You’re not even worth my time.’

“Uh… No, we haven’t.”

The attendant quickly bowed his head. Rotzak sighed and began addressing the King of Fibiel. After enough time passed for pleasantries (or the lack thereof), the Pope finally spoke.

“Thank you all for coming today. May the name of Ahlo bless each nation.”

As the Pope bowed, so did each nation’s king and attendant with due respect.

“I assume no one here is unaware of why they have come, so let us proceed directly to the point. Fernand?”

“Yes, Your Holiness.”

“Would you please show the letter?”

“Pardon?”

Fernand took out a well-sealed letter and raised it high for all representatives to see, including Browless’s attendants from Ezwen. The letter, to an onlooker, seemed unremarkable.

“This letter cannot be opened by anyone other than Mr. Browless himself. Aside from being revealed now, no one else can know its contents, and of course, there’s been no falsification or tampering of any kind—I state this in advance.”

Browless’s eyes narrowed upon hearing Fernand, but they soon relaxed.

“It’s only natural to want to open it. I completely understand.”

How could they have known it was unopenable by anyone else? It implied that Ezwen had tried every conceivable method to unlock it.

Despite feeling a momentary annoyance, Browless realized that wasn’t the focus now. Fernand approached Browless with the letter in hand.

“So, Browless-nim. Do you grant permission to reveal it?”


“Of course. For the honor and fairness of both myself and my comrades, I am willing to allow its disclosure.”

Browless had already mentioned several times to Leeha and Kidd that not foreseeing this scenario wasn’t like Brown.

For the Old Guard’s Three Musketeers, who trust each other thoroughly, there was no further hesitation necessary.

“Let’s reveal it.”

The moment Browless received the letter from Fernand, the seal was automatically lifted. When it seemed like a faint light was gradually gathering in the air, the figures of Elizabeth and Brown, formed out of mana, were already materializing in the conference room’s void.

“Your Majesty!”

The first to react were the king’s guards. The captain of Fibiel’s royal guard immediately wrapped around the king. Shazrashian and Kraven, too, were part of the guard protecting the king. However, no one in Minis made a move. Both Ewin and Cheka simply sat still in their places.

“Oh!”

“To be able to materialize mana in a mana-sealed space!? How could this be—what method—”

“Didn’t you say that the letter had been thoroughly inspected, fernand!” exclaimed the individuals from Ezwen, each raising a voice while looking at the letter. Seeing this, ewin from Minis was smiling.

“It seems there are interesting things across the sea, Your Majesty. Wonder when you might send me to see them.”

“There’s still much for you here, ewin.”

“Hehe, of course, that’s true. I was merely suggesting, should the time come… consider it then.”

“I believe you can handle the affairs across the sea even from here. If you truly wish, I can assin trustworthy men at your disposal.”

“Such magnanimity, I am grateful.”

In Ezwen’s shock and in comparison to Minis’s composure, Fibiel was rigid and tense. The royal guard captain, excited to protect the king, and the king, with a stern expression but also stepping back a few steps. And Rotzak, glaring as if to kill at the figures of Elizabeth and Brown formed in the void. The only person who was completely at ease in this place was just one.

“You guys~.”

Browless was already looking at them with tears welling up in her eyes. = ※ 『Brow, hi! Have you been well?』

『Ahem, honey? Though it’s a letter to be announced at a formal occasion, that tone might be a bit—』

『You calling me ‘honey’ and then saying that! Heh, brow, surprised, aren’t you! It’s how we’ve been living these days. Luckily, we’re still living a decent life, right?』 In the vision formed of mana, elizabeth and Brown began to speak, bickering back and forth. Fernand clenched his lips.

‘As expected… they knew this would be seen by everyone. Then, what could be the content of the letter?’

It couldn’t possibly be a public declaration for Browless to join the Demon King’s Army. Could it be some kind of code that only the three of them would understand? Or literally, a ‘letter’, intended to convey some information? Fernand was very well aware of the significance of this moment.

‘It would be better to relay this to Leeha-ssi.’

Furthermore, he was conscious that he was the only user present at this event. Fernand wasn’t a user who would foolishly keep his concerns to himself.

『We’re doing well, it’s just a shame it’s only the two of us. What about you, brow? You seem to have raised some interesting characters over there?』

『Hmm, but the ‘Pierce’ was a bit off.

‘Rapid Fire’ and ‘Accuracy’ were somewhat tolerable though.』

『Why, what’s wrong with that? You’re only strict with your dongsaeng. From my perspective, ‘Accuracy’ is also not great.』 Could they have been attempting to discuss the new trio? Of course, that was unlikely. The ‘intellectuals’ present here all understood.

“That it’s a shame it’s just the two of us”, fernand could also grasp what that meant. It was because Kyle wasn’t visible in the vision.

『You might have guessed by now, but our son is very ill. We had… no choice but to step back 20 years ago to save our son.

『Looking back, it was foolish. The moment we did, we fell into ‘his’ trap.』 The sudden confession from the couple darkened the mood in the conference room. (To be continued…)

Note: Elizabeth and Brown call Browless ‘Brow’ as pet name. But it felt awkward, so I changed to Brow. 
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“If you couldn’t even say a word to me, couldn’t you have at least given me a hint? Who ‘he’ is, I would have… I would have put a hole through his head right there and then.” mumbled Browless.

He wondered what it felt like to speak knowing his words could do no damage to them. Fernand noticed Browless’s face suddenly looked more haggard.

『Brow! You’re not going around saying, ‘If only you had told me sooner, I would have put a hole in his head-‘ right? You know we’re not that thoughtless.』

『The moment we spoke up, everyone would have been in danger. Simply put, Kyle—ah! You must have heard by now, but our son’s name is Kyle. Pretty good, right?』

『I named him!』

Interrupting Brown’s words to flaunt her naming sense, elizabeth got a noncommittal hum from Browless.

Leehas also able to catch Browless’s expression on the brink with his scope.

“‘He’ is strong. Back then, even if the three of us had attacked, we would have been in danger. That’s why… we couldn’t talk about it then, friend.”

In the video, Brown paused and looked around. As if this moment is connected in real-time, his body turned towards the audience.

“I’m not sure how many people are watching this. Surely, some officials from Fibiel are present. I don’t know how we’re recorded or if His Majesty, the King, would understand and forgive us. We just feel the need to convey the ‘truth’. I, Brown, give you my word.”

After catching his breath, Brown continued, “20 years ago, on that day… there was someone who cursed our son. A damned person who cast a curse on Koma in Elizabeth’s womb, not even born yet. I believe that person may be present here.”

Shocked by Brown’s intention to reveal something significant, fernand was astonished.

“Is he trying to say something? A traitor? No, if we could identify a spy from the Demon King’s Army who had ‘infiltrated’ humanity since the Second Human-Demon War! That’s it, to reveal it at this event!”

How many plans had Brown made for this moment? How much had he considered the characters of those present? He must have hoped, almost prayed, for an environment like the current one where traitors would be powerless to act!

At the moment of sudden confession, ‘the adventurer’ chose to observe.

When everyone’s gaze was fixed on Elizabeth and Brown, fernand surveyed the representatives of different nations.

Ewin of the Plains, contrary to his nickname, looked excitedly at the screen. Officials from Ezwen showed slightly surprised expressions, as did the Pope.

Shazrashian and Kraven? They were the same. There seemed to be no difference in the reaction of Fibiel’s people.

However, there was one person, unmistakably distinct in expression according to Fernand. Both Brown and Elizabeth looked in the same direction in the video.


The one they were looking at was not wearing the same expression as any other.

“This won’t go as you think. I believe… our dongsaengs, and Brow will surely resolve it. We won’t let our son be taken hostage anymore.”

The previously cheerful Elizabeth almost teared up. It must have been a restless 20 years for them too. The person Elizabeth and Brown were directly facing.

And the person who Fernand noticed had a differing expression!

“Rotzak!”

Elizabeth finally spat out the name. Rotzak waved his hand with an incredulous face.

But that was it.

“No matter how we put it, ‘It’s a strategy of dissension by those who defected to the Demon King’s Army’, if your true name isn’t revealed.”

At that moment, lotzak’s face, filled with panic and anxiety, began to distort slowly.

“This, this is-”

“Mana? No, it’s different from mana—this is—”

The Archbishops of Ezwen were the first to notice the change. Fernand couldn’t feel it himself, but he knew through observation. The look on Rotzak’s face was filled with sheer rage.

“You must say your name correctly! You are not Rotzak, no, you’re not even human to begin with! We’ve finally discovered it! After 20 years, finally! Your name is-”

“You damned bastards—–ㅡ|!”

Rotzak shot up from his seat.

At the same time, elizabeth yelled out, “Kaztor! The one we call Rotzak is a Dark Elf, transformed by magic, his real name is Kaztor!”

“Kaz… Tor…!”

Even Fernand recognized the name. A line of formula flashed through his mind instantly. Rotzak = Kaztor

“An, anagram! It’s even embarrassing to call it an anagram”, the name Rotzak was nothing but the letters of Kaztor simply reversed!

Everyone in the room momentarily froze.


“What’s a Kaztor?”

“What- what are you talking about now?”

Over half the people present couldn’t understand what was being said, and even those who knew the legends passed down orally about Rotzak and Kaztor, the Dark Elf, and the witch hunter, found it hard to accept it immediately.

“Rotzak…?”

“The, the Archmage?”

“Your Majesty of Fibiel, this matter requires an explanation to our home country.”

Rotzak is Kaztor?

The Archmage of Fibiel, who had been active since the Second Human-Demon War, was actually a Dark Elf?

Who would readily believe and act on it?

“Sa, brow! Kill Rotzak, no, Kaztor!”

Elizabeth’s voice echoed desperately.

In the midst of everyone’s confusion, there was only one person who could move. Their comrade and friend, akin to a hyung, Browless trusted their words and rolled up his coat.

However, driven by rage, that action could yield no result. Browless, too, had all his weapons confiscated. It was impossible to bring even the smallest weapon into this conference room, where attacking Rotzak directly was out of the question.

Rotzak merely glanced at it, without any reaction. But from that moment, something “invisible” to everyone but the high-ranking officials of Ezwen began to appear to Fernand as well.

“Heh… Indeed, indeed. So you left silently to the east for that reason. To avoid my mana and kill me using your allies in the meantime? Pathetic.”

The Pope stood up abruptly and pointed at Rotzak.

“De, demonic Energy! The Archmage of Fibiel! You truly-”

“Shut your mouth, flesh bag!”

Whoosh-! It all happened in an instant.

A black mass in front of Rotzak was shimmering as if it was about to explode any second.


“To manipulate mana- to be able to use mana here- This isn’t just any mana, but ‘Demonic Energy’…! A different kind of mana that only non-humans can handle…

‘No human’ should be able to manipulate mana here since I’ve sealed it… But this actually means the person in question isn’t human”, the Pope groaned.

His voice, breaking off intermittently, underscored the gravity of the situation.

“If that’s the case, are you saying he truly is a Dark Elf! Fernand, call the guards at once—”

One of the members of Seat 09 cried out, rising to his feet, but Rotzak paid him no mind.

“Do not move.”

There was no need for additional threats like death upon movement. Gazing at the twelve fragments of darkness split within Rotzak’s hand, everyone present lost the strength to move.

“The flow of divine power feels the same.”

Rotzak immediately addressed the members of Ezwen.

In this place, where no mana could stir, the only power that could be wielded was the divine strength of the Pope and the Cardinals.

Perhaps it was a priority to seal that first.

The Pope, though his face was marked with rage, found himself unable to easily offer up prayers.

“No matter how holy one might be, protecting everyone here requires time for prayer. Or we would need to unseal the mana flow, which also takes considerable time. The latter requires significantly more concentration and time…” If that flow of divine power were to be controlled by Rotzak— or rather, Kaztor— then he would detonate the masses of darkness.

What would be the outcome of such overwhelming offensive power being deployed here? Fernand barely swallowed dryly.

The death of the Pope and various kings? An unprecedented crisis in the history of Middle Earth, if unfolded, could possibly turn not just the Middle Earth community but the entire Old Continent into ruins!

While the attendants from each country were forming a protective circle around their kings, it was uncertain how effective their ‘human shield’ defense would be.

It was natural that Rotzak would take the lead.

“But you’re still short-sighted, Brown. Elizabeth. Did you really think that after killing everyone here and turning Lope into ruins, I wouldn’t come after you in Erika? Tsk tsk… Ah! Is that how much you trust me? What do you think, failure, Browless?”

“… Rotzak. No, you… what have you really done to them.”

Browless clenched his fist. Fernand saw blood running from it.

Despite his nails digging completely into his flesh, Browless did not relax his grip.

“Do you still not understand after hearing ‘your most trusted friend’s story? Keke, it was not difficult to extract. Kyle…~ As long as that incomplete one is around, they wouldn’t dare say anything. I was too careless. Or rather, should I be glad for being careless? It gave me this opportunity.”

“Do you think you can return safely?”

“Why not? I have noticed it too. Your damned disciple, Leeha, must be lurking somewhere outside, targeting this place. If it weren’t for Minister Minis’s guards glancing outside, I almost missed it. It’s time to make a move.”

“Ahhh!”

Cheka was momentarily startled, his eyes widening, while Browless gritted his teeth as if they were about to crack. Rotzak had cunningly positioned himself so.

He placed the members of Ezwen and the King of Fibiel in front of him, ensuring that his form could not be seen through the windows. Rotzak then briefly turned his head towards Fernand.

“And I roughly guess where this conversation is being transmitted to. Isn’t that right, Pioneer King?”

Through the encrypted messages, fernand, who was relaying everything here, gaped.

“Firstly, I need to kill the rats. The rest can wait. If the Pope, the chairman of 09, and all the kings die here and I disappear amidst the ensuing chaos, no one here will… survive.”

The shadows writhed more violently, signaling their impeding explosion.

“So, I infiltrated in this ridiculous attire for what?”

Eh?

At that moment, someone murmured. Rotzak turned his head towards the direction of the voice.

To Browless’s left, a spot quite a distance from Rotzak.

“I won’t let you have your way, lotzak. Or shall I say, Kaztor.”

It was Ezwen’s envoy, standing near Kraven’s members, who had been escorting Browless!

“He placed his hand on his face.

Something fell with a ‘tok’.

TL’s Corner:

The writing was on the wall. The ㄹ can be read as L or R depending on its placement. Dang. I didn’t see that one coming!
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Browless recognized Fernand immediately. He silently activated his skill.

“Activate: 18 Panning”

The revolver in Kidd’s hand, empowered by the 『Rapid Fire』 skill, began to spit flames.

Babababang—!

Six shots from one position, six from another, and three from the next! The relentless barrage of over a dozen bullets fired towards Rotzak was like Kidd’s own declaration of rage.

“Aaargh-!”

It was tough for Rotzak to maintain his magical energy as bullets perforated his arms, legs, and torso, creating numerous holes.

With his magic weakening and being driven back merely by the stopping power of the bullets, lotzak only managed to retreat two steps. But, that was enough.

“Finish it, Leeha.”

Kidd glanced at the window. In that moment, the window shattered.—Just two steps away. It was a favorable position for the bullet, curved from a distance of 950m, to make its mark.

Blood erupted from Rotzak’s head like a fountain.

“Kaztor- Kaz- Ah, ahhh?!”

Not only Fernand but also Leeha, who had been receiving a live update through Kidd disguised as a member of Ezwen, exclaimed.

The moment Kaztor’s name was mentioned, Leeha had a revelation.

“This, this, now that I think about it, I am a fool.”

And he couldn’t help but blame himself. Leeha quickly rummaged through his bag after making Jellypong hold the Black Bass.

Tucked away in the corner of the bag was a small piece of boat.

“The emblem etched on the piece I got after capturing the Bone Drake from Kaztor’s 6th laboratory, that guardian!”

A star resembling the flag of Israel, with a small dot beside it! Where was this emblem located?


Leeha looked back at Rotzak with Black Bass in hand and saw the same symbol drawn on his “hat”.

“The 148 worlds of Middle Earth, and each mage paints his own unique magic circle… Damn it, just as Hyein said—No, if that’s the magic circle Rotzak uses, then- Rotzak doesn’t need a staff! It’s that hat-‘

-Kidd! Fernand-ssi! Rotzak’s hat! We need to take off the hat! It was a weapon all along!”

But it was already too late. The menacing bulk had been formed moments after it was glimpsed through the scope.

‘Damn it! So, lotzak was Kaztor after all! Such a simple- this trickery…!’

Leeha wanted to pull the trigger right now, but the risk was too high.

Even if Leeha were to attempt a curve shot, in such a densely packed space, there’s no telling who might get hit.

Rotzak had already cunningly concealed his figure. All that was visible to Leeha was the tantalizingly protruding tip of the hat.

“Shoot that? Would shooting that disrupt the magic? But there’s no guarantee with mana, let alone magic I’m seeing for the first time…”

Leeha quickly adjusted his aim, but it wasn’t yet time.

Even if the hat were knocked off, there’s no guarantee the magic would dissipate. A spell already cast can best be countered by disrupting the caster’s concentration.

Reveal our position with an uncertain shot? It would be too regrettable after all the planning in hiding.

“If we can’t trust, then it’s not the time yet.”

As the situation evolved, and even as he quietly listened to the developments, Leeha had the luxury to calm his agitation.

“With Kidd here.”

Kidd, equipped with the 『Spy Hero Kojobu’s Glasses』, hadn’t revealed himself yet, surely waiting for the right moment.

Silently, he prepared, his mind cold and his heart ablaze, until the signal came.

“Phew… So, lotzak was Kaztor. I mean, how absurd.”

All the facts Leeha had researched about Kaztor now neatly fit with Rotzak’s suspicious actions.

Being with the gorillas of the New Continent, unraveling the secrets of the Arcane Sniper, he must have discovered how to completely transform into a human.


“Without using mana at that.”

Applying it to himself, maybe 40 years ago, Kaztor, the Dark Elf, completely concealed his elfish physique, becoming the human, lotzak.

Given his inherent affinity for mana, in addition to possessing knowledge and wisdom far surpassing any ordinary human due to his age, it all made sense now. Maintaining his youthful appearance to be active as a ‘prodigy in handling mana’ wasn’t a difficult task. It was only natural that he achieved rapid promotion to the rank of legion staff officer during the Second Mana War 20 years ago. Yet, even after transforming into a human without using mana, was it impossible for him to use “Arcane Sniper” directly?

“Or was there some kind of risk involved? That could be the case. Becoming the direct Arcane Sniper means facing inevitable death sooner or later. The moment all the Arcane Bullet are used, death is certain, so—it was about finding the right candidate. Someone who wouldn’t carry the risk themselves, someone who, due to their circumstances, had no choice but to obey him absolutely,

“And also someone with shooting skills that could be mistaken for those of the Arcane Bullet.”

Was Elizabeth the top candidate? Or was it Brown? Then, suddenly, he must have learned that they were pregnant.

“That’s where it all started. Given Lord Rotzak, no, Kaztor’s cunning mind…”

Knowing well the plight of the Dark Elves, “If it were just them, they would have avoided becoming the Arcane Sniper at all costs, even if it meant killing each other.”

But by making Koma of those two the Arcane Sniper—

“He gains control over all three of them.

“Damn, that’s too much! Ahhhh… No, no, relax. Relax.”

Fernand’s voice grew increasingly desperate, while Kidd’s voice, on the other hand, became calmer.

“Let’s begin.”

Leeha: Ready. I won’t be able to sleep tonight if we don’t take down that crazy psycho. Kidd, be careful too.

Kidd: Are you worried about me?

Leeha: Well, yes. Who wouldn’t be calm and angry at the same time? I trust you!

Kidd: No matter how angry my head gets, Kidd removed his glasses, -my hands do not.

Even with extreme anger, Kidd’s hands accurately aimed at the target.

As the firing of numerous shots ended, lotzak—would he fall after being hit by all those shots?

Fernand didn’t think he would fall. Considering the velocity of the Arcane Bullet, where would his head be at the next moment if he didn’t fall but only staggered?


“Right here. 『Curve Shot』!”

Bang–!

With that, he fired, breaking the Vatican’s window and grazing past figures of Ezwen, hitting Rotzak’s head. Blood was seen gushing. But at that moment, fernand saw Rotzak’s pupils too.

He was looking at Fernand, causing him to feel as if hundreds of worms were crawling all over his body. The head was hit, and a blood fountain gushed. But what did those eyes mean?

“No, no!”

Rotzak, or rather Kaztor, raised his hands.

“Is he dead- dead?”

“The window?!”

“Who did it?”

The figures from Ezwen were startled by the glass shards jumping out from behind, turning around.

But it wasn’t just that for the foreign figures. Seeing the staggering figure of Kaztor and the masses of darkness flicker and disappear, they had done ‘their duty.’

“Your Majesty! Your Majesty! I shall protect Your Majesty’s life with my own body!”

“I will draw my blood to use the divine protection, Your Majesty.”

“Everyone, protect the king!”

“Cheka, please.”

Fibiel, Kraven, Shazrashian, and even Minis.

The physical combatants and the royal guard personnel from various countries each took action to protect their kings.

Fernand: Kidd, block it!

Fernand’s mutter echoed in Kidd’s head. Kidd already knew. Kaztor’s staggering movements returned to their original state.

Though it seemed like more than half of his head was gone, his body did not turn to ash.

“If he gets up, we’ll just have to kill him again.”

Using the 18 Panning with 『Crimson Geckos』 cost three bullets. There are still six bullets left loaded in one of them!Kidd immediately placed his right hand on his waist and began rapid firing. Kaztor’s body swayed like a balloon losing air, but it did not turn to a metallic color as one might expect. Only a glare filled with malice moved slickly towards Kidd. It was not the eyes of someone who had given up on everything.

“In the wilds of Texas… the eyes of a struggling bear!”

It was the look of a life instinct determined to use any means to survive.

“I will never… die.”

What gathered at Rotzak’s fingertips was a massive dark mass. However, the flow of power within it was not neat. It was a rampaging mass, indicating only one thing. Kidd immediately turned around.

“Headmaster!”

Even as Browless was about to fall to the ground, they were not looking at Kidd. Rotzak/Kaztor’s gaze was fixed on a place where a single attack, a single explosion, could turn the scene into utter chaos.

“Kidd! It’s not me- Protect His Holiness the Pope-”

After confirming that Kaztor was using magic, he had been applying his divine power faintly all the while.

“I wanted to protect everyone, but this is my limit. I have lifted the seal on mana. Fernand, take care of yourself first. And Romero, Browless, I leave the rest to you.”

The Pope’s words spread solemnly. As soon as he finished speaking, all sorts of lights burst simultaneously from various places inside the conference room.

“Your, Your, holinessss-!”

When Fernand screamed and ran towards the Pope, the dark mass shot at the Pope briefly flickered. The white light leaking from the black, which absorbed everything, did not signify hope. It simply meant that the mass of magic called Demonic Energy was about to explode, unable to contain the energy division.

“Peace to the continent of Silver-”

All kinds of barriers were already surrounding the individuals in the conference room. The only person not enveloped by the light was the Pope himself. The Pope was smiling. Even in his final moments, he was unlocking the seal on mana flow rather than protect himself, crafting a path for everyone else to live. It was his last smile as an old sage.

“Damn it- Crap!”

With the explosion, a tremendous force erupted, to the extent that people nearby had to raise their arms to block the aftermath.

“Kaztor has escaped! The headmaster is alive but cannot move anymore—What, lotzak, no, Kaztor, or whatever, he’s gone! Ezwen, I can’t move right now because I’m protecting the cardinals of Ezwen-”

Amidst the urgent voices, one had no choice but to withstand the aftermath. There was no one else to pursue him immediately.

“Damn it, Jellypong! Let’s go!” 『Momg!』 Deactivating his camouflage immediately, he began the pursuit with Jellypong. Skilled in three-dimensional maneuvering, Jellypong grabbed chimneys and roofs of buildings, throwing his body to move.

“Over there! That way!” 『Myong!』 Chasing after Kaztor was not difficult. They just had to head towards the suddenly noisy location that the users and Ezwen’s cardinals were flocking to.

“What I’m curious about is how he didn’t die. I definitely hit him in the head.”

Even if Kaztor noticed his presence, it didn’t matter. The insta-kill point, the human head, which is unrelated to damage. Despite more than half of the head being damaged, Kaztor was still moving.

‘Including Kidd’s damage- even on the low end, it would have been over 100,000. Didn’t my shot and Kidd’s shots tore Rotzak’s flesh apart? And yet he can still move?’

The only thing that came to mind was one possibility.

‘It’s not just a simple transformation. Maybe that is-‘

(To be continued…)
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Even Leeha himself is resorting to creating baits out of Jellypong and Kojobu’s glasses. Having acquired a polymorph that does not use mana long ago— moreover, as a magic prodigy within the dark elf race that leaves others in awe— it wouldn’t be impossible for Kaztor.

“What’s crucial isn’t that, but rather how we can inflict damage. To suddenly find it—wait, Jellypong! Over there! Just lift me up high once!”

『Myong!』

Leeha pulled on the lever. Clink!

With a sound, a bullet was loaded. At the same moment, he felt his body being lifted.

This wasn’t a Blaugrunn-induced levitation. It was literally just Jellypong tossing him up forcefully. Yet, Leeha kept his composure.

Because he’d spotted Kaztor without even needing to use the scope.

‘Huuuuuh… Guess I should start with a proper greeting?’

Leeha steadied his breath. The stability his body regained in mid-air would last less than half a second.

That moment, just before peaking and beginning the free fall.

“Haaa…”

Leeha didn’t miss that brief moment.

The moment he pulled the trigger, a massive gunshot echoed over the skies of Ezwen.

“Piercing through—!!!”

Kaztor staggered. Yet, that was all.

Black smoke seeped from the hole in his chest.

“Damn it! Let’s chase after him! And-”

『Myong-!』

“『Soul Link』 and 『Summon: Partner』!”


Leeha simultaneously summoned Koma and Blaugrunn.

Shocked by the sudden gunshot, ezwen’s skies had players and 148 NPCs shielding their eyes from the sudden burst of turquoise and red lights.

“Crazy, its speed hasn’t decreased. No, rather than slowing down…”

Stumbling, Kaztor tried to flee, but the Ezwen guards couldn’t handle even one injured person. He didn’t wave a staff but merely fluttered their hands in the air, yet the dark arrows shot pierced the guards’ hearts with precision.

“Leeha?”

“Kuoong?”

“Everyone, stop whining and chase after him! Out of the city walls!”

Blaugrunn, along with Koma, no longer hesitated, used levitation magic on everyone to pursue Kaztor.

“Blaugrunn! With magic! We must catch him!”

“Understood!”

“Koma, you too! Seize any chance to strike at his limbs!”

“Kuooong-!”

In the center of Ezwen’s Cathedral, Kaztor, who had started his escape, had already reached near the city walls.

“Before he escapes further—we must catch him before he uses teleportation!”

Although Leeha was fast, the gap between Kaztor and Leeha’s group wasn’t closing. The moment Kaztor stood before the walls, ready to leap, Leeha noticed cloaks fluttering oddly.

There were three of them; Leeha recognized them immediately.

“Those, those are- the ones from back then! Were they not suspicious individuals but Kaztor’s aides!?”

The suspicious ones they had lost while trailing with Kidd! To appear at this moment of all times!

Leeha clenched his teeth.

“The Papacy might handle the firing at Kaztor but—those guys… Ah, forget it! Fire anyways!”


Rules prohibited gunfire within the town, but Leeha couldn’t hesitate. The moment he pulled the trigger, a familiar voice reached his ears.

“So it’s the young marksman from that time. Have you forgotten the coin I gave you?”

Eh? Wha- What??

Flutter… They threw off their cloaks in one smooth motion.

Two men stood revealed: one with white hair and scar, a shortsword wielder, and the other a middle-aged man wielding two wands, as Leeha had seen before.

Yet, the identity of another, whose cloak fluttered awkwardly—?

“Le- Lepanto! Sir Lepanto!”

The reason the cloak had fluttered awkwardly. It was because he was missing a left arm.

“From now on, we’ll take over! We have been waiting for today, just today, rohtzan! Forward, comrades!”

The one-armed fencer, lepanto, leaped forward with a sword in his right hand. Simultaneously, the white-haired scarred man raised a pile of daggers in both hands, and the middle-aged man with streaks of white in his hair lifted two wands.

“Kuhahaha, I shall reclaim the lost 20 years with your life!”

『Physical Link: Dagger, 『Damage Chain』』

The thrown daggers connected into a single chain.

From the start, the attacks of the two seemed coordinated, as dozens of daggers danced in the air before flying towards Kaztor.

“… You would have been happier living forever without your memories, you trash!”

Kaztor frowned as he gestured towards them.

“Comrades… And what that white-haired man just shouted! People who lost their memories during the Second Human-Demon War – they were the work of Rotzak!”

It was a sudden confrontation with the ‘Lost Heroes’ of the Second Human-Demon War and the Dark Elves, but Leeha was not one to stay idle.

Leeha quickly adjusted their aim.

“Cough, shall I aim for the remaining arm?”


“Still alive with that appearance. I’ll stitch up that filthy mouth first, lotzak!”

“I’ll do the stitching! Huuuh!”

The white-haired man swung his arm.

Though it was clearly “throwing daggers”, perhaps due to the assistance of the middle-aged man with two wands, dozens of daggers began to dance in the air under the direction of the white-haired man.

The sight of them slicing through Kaztor’s flesh, tearing his clothes, and even embedding in his shins, wreaking havoc, was brutally gruesome from afar.

“Yes, there was someone manipulating toys. You’ve turned on quite a few, ‘Velraid.'”

“Kuhaha! Wasn’t I always the older one? But today, you’re the one going into the coffin!”

“Doesn’t make any sense-”

Kaztor attempted to reach out to the white-haired man, but his motion was forcibly stopped midway.

“Gant!”

Lepanto’s sword, having leaped into the action, plunged into Kaztor’s elbow joint from the side.

Kaztor looked at his crushed joint and smirked.

“Ha, I should’ve completely erased your memories.”

“Annoying talk. Our pain, having wandered the hell of ignorance for 20 years because of you-”

“Shut up.”

Whooosh-!

Kaztor swung his remaining arm at Lepanto.

In an instant, enveloped by a burst of dark energy, lepanto was slammed to the ground.

『Chain Bed』!”

Zzzzzt-

As the two wands were waved, chains of mana burst forth amidst the buildings on the ground.

The mesh of mana chains formed at Lepanto’s crash site, bouncing his body violently.

“Annoying magic user, ‘Yenoha’ the Linker.”

“It’s because I tracked your tracks to the very end, lotzak. 『Chain Spear』!”

Yenoha, the mage, swung his wands. The mana chains that had previously supported Lepanto sharply burst towards Kaztor.

“Didn’t I say, it was merely bothersome?”

Kaztor waved his hand. When a hemisphere of black appeared in front of him, the mana chains could no longer approach him. It seemed the revenge of the lost heroes of the Second Human-Demon War was at its end if no one else had been there.

Whoosh-!

“Ah, were you still here, Leeha?”

Leeha’s bullet horizontally hit through Kaztor’s shoulder. The bullet entered the left shoulder and was about to exit the right, yet Kaztor merely staggered in the air.

Leeha bit their lip at the sight. He thought that such a simple attack wouldn’t be enough to kill him.

“Of course, I was still here. You thought I’d miss?”

“If you kill me, the secret of Arcane Sniper will remain unsolved.”

“No, that’s not possible. I’ll kill you and solve the secret of Arcane Sniper.”

“How? Even God couldn’t know that. Ask the Demon King’s Fragments? Those things are merely pieces after all. No one but me… nobody can know.”

“Hm?”

Listening to Kaztor’s story, Leeha tilted their head slightly. God? A Demon King’s Fragment? These were names that had unexpectedly popped up, ones Leeha hadn’t even considered.

“I should have killed you from the start. You…that filthy gaze. The day we first met at the Royal Archives, I should have killed you then. But, luckily…”

“Luck? What luck are you talking about? Keeping me alive has been quite entertaining, hasn’t it? It’s too late for regrets now. What matters is, Kaztor, you’re finished.”

As Leeha spoke, one corner of Kaztor’s lips twisted into a smirk.

“Luckily, I can kill you in my preferred way. Dea-”

Just as Kaztor was about to complete his sentence, Leeha swiftly raised my hand.

“Gentlemen! Thank you for buying us time! Blaugrunn, Kidd-”

The battle between the heroes who went missing after the Second War of Humans and Demons and Kaztor was over in less than three minutes. The reason Leeha had been exchanging words with Kaztor until now?

Of course, there was a reason.

“-And Lieutenant!”

“Magnificent Six.”

“The Wild Bunch.”

Kidd and Browless simultaneously activated their barrage skills.

How many souls converged into two due to ‘Rapid Shot’? How many bullets were fired by them?

80!

Amid the incessant gunfire, Leeha Black Bass also contributed its roar. Kaztor couldn’t even speak. He was unable to move his hand.

To Kidd, Browless, and Leeha, he was nothing more than a ‘large target’ floating in the air, a difficult one to miss.

“Capture him! Blaugrunn! Hurry and capture him! This is just delaying the inevitable!”

Yet, Leeha did not look pleased. This relentless attack was meant to shatter Kaztor’s spirit so that he couldn’t cast his magic!

The most crucial aspect was about the capture and paralyzing magic that Leeha had mentioned earlier to Blaugrunn. Blaugrunn remained unresponsive to Leeha’s urging.

“The duration is about to end, hurry!”

“The dragon’s response is still-”

“Just a bit more! Even if the skills end, use regular bullets-”

The duration of Kidd and Browless’ skills nearly ended simultaneously. Leeha also reloaded and indiscriminately spewed bullets towards Kaztor.

“Blaugrunn! Please- no more- Kidd, block it! Block it with your body, catch Kaztor!”

“Krrrrr!”

Suddenly, ignited by Ignis’s power, Koma’s thighs swelled as if they were about to burst.

A cyan light that had been gathering in the form of a dragon’s body for two full minutes finally condensed.

『Electric Jail: Mana Pool Charge』

That explained why Blaugrunn’s magic took so long. Dragons had long known that ordinary magic could not bind him.

‘Okay, it worked! Although it’s Juvenile-class, Blaugrunn’s mana, which is close to Adult-class-‘

But Kaztor was already staring them down, standing upright. The moment he attempted to swing his arm, the cub, transformed into a bear by Ignis’s power, struck it down. With a single hit, Kaztor’s left arm was completely severed.

“Half-dead, dow-”

Yet, he did not stop. His body, riddled with holes and less than 40% intact, whether it could still be called a “body” I wasn’t sure, but he moved his remaining limb nonetheless.

As space tore apart, Kaztor disappeared. The prison of lightning blazed intensely in the air, but it was a spell already lost its target.

“Ah…crap.”

“Damn.”

Tsstsstssts-…!

Someone cursed loudly, but only the sound of the electric prison burning echoed emptily. In the spot where Kaztor had completely vanished, only Leeha and Kidd’s bodies were glowing faintly.

『You have leveled up.』

However, neither of them smiled.

Kaztor, who had turned the headquarters of the Ezwen Church to ruins and caused the unprecedented incident of the Pope’s death in the history of Middle Earth, just disappeared from their sight like that.

(To be continued…)
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“Son! Have you eaten?”

“I’ll eat later.”

“You said that this morning and skipped, at least have lunch.”

“Okay. But I’m really not hungry right now. I’ll eat a bit later. Don’t worry.”

Seeing his smile, Leeha’s mother did not urge him further, for his expression was slightly awkward, more of a grimace than a grin.

Sigh…

Despite having slept through the whole day, his thoughts were still a tangled mess. Leeha remained unable to connect to Middle Earth, instead wandering through online communities.

“It feels like it’s been more than a week in game time…”

Certainly, no short period. Yet, it seemed hardly enough for the commotion of Middle Earth’s first major event, the Demise of Pope Ezwen, to settle down.

*『Title』: So what happens to Ezwen now?**

*『Title』: Why did my Ezwen affinity suddenly drop?**

*『Title』: Any Fibiel users here?**

*『Title』: LOL, because Fibiel killed the pope, that’s why**

*『Title』: As if it’s my fault**

*『Title』: Who will be the next pope? Conclave set for 2-10.**

*『Title』: High chance the New Continent policy changes depending on the pope’s inclination (with evidence)**

*『Title』: Ezwen priest users are having a fierce faction conflict LOL**

*『Title』: If the cardinal I support becomes pope, it’s gonna be insanely good, obviously**

Sigh…


The community was still plastered with discussions about Ezwen.

The pope’s death was a significant incident indeed, and this contributed to Leeha’s headache.

After missing Kaztor, Leeha had to return to the Vatican to coordinate with representatives of various countries and only managed to log out after.

The problem was the changes this event would trigger.

“Fibiel’s affinity with Ezwen plummeted. Anyone who hadn’t maintained over 50% affinity with Ezwen is probably facing negative values now.”

In truth, bL was also a victim.

When Kaztor used a mass of magic to destroy the council room, the captain of Fibiel’s royal guards was near death.

“It wasn’t a simple mana explosion; healing spells or potions didn’t work. By the time I logged out, the captain was literally carried away. I wonder if he has woken up by now. If not, bL’s royal palace is in for a disaster. Their barrier and ward were no match for Kaztor’s explosion.”

The captain, being closest, suffered significant injuries.

But was that all?

“Two cardinals from the Council of Nine died. It was a stroke of luck that the chairman survived. Minis had light injuries, Kraven saw the death of an attendant, and Shazrashian had seriously injured attendants, with the president only suffering light wounds.”

Thanks to 『Kojobu’s Spy Glasses』, Kidd, who managed to avoid any item inspection, quickly took all the protective items he could carry and was ready to move.

It was fortunate that Browless, protected by Kidd, and Fernand, who always carried various armors for adventures, were safe.

However, there were certainly casualties apart from the pope, and someone had to take responsibility. Fibiel was naturally the first to be blamed.

Having brought Rotzak/Kaztor into the country without identifying his true nature was an oversight.

“If a cardinal or someone of equal rank to the Council of Nine had died, or worse, a king from another country…”

Would the New Continent even matter then?

In the old continent, an event transpired that could have easily reignited a war between nations. In a critical moment, the Pope sacrificed his life to unlock the seal on the mana flow – a divine move for the sake of humanity.

“Especially Minis– Cheka, was it?… Truly a force to be reckoned with physically.”

Should gratitude be in order? It was said that Cheka played a vital role in mitigating the damage to Minis thanks to that Ewin only recieved moderate injuries.


“Not a barrier, but he was wrapped in some sort of cloak”, they said. Although the cloak’s breadth was limited, failing to cover Ewin entirely and leaving him with minor injuries, it was still remarkable. It was an item possessing defensive capabilities on par with the Cardinal Class of Ezwen, meaning its defensive power rivaled that of high-ranking ecclesiastical officials.

“The cloak’s damage absorption, along with its defense, is around 50,000. It might even be superior to Jellypong. If only I could acquire such a cloak–” There are still unknown items out there! And many yet unnamed figures wielding such items make recent times, filled with somber events, somewhat exciting for Leeha.

The uncertainty whether Cheka was an NPC or a player remained.

“Ugh, I need to log in regardless. Whatever the case! Oh dear, there’s also setting up a resistance organization against the creatures of the New Continent… Busy, so busy. Ah, I need to stop by Gaza City for that as well.”

Leeha’s steps towards the Middle Earth login device suddenly halted.

“Ah, right. Let’s have a meal first, eat and then!”

What’s done is done. Regrettable as it may be, dwelling on the past serves no one. Resolved to shake it off with a meal and return to Middle Earth with a refreshed and vibrant spirit, Leeha chuckled.

“Hehehe, see, my friend? Without the Holy Knight, everything falls into place, doesn’t it? Huh? Isn’t it so?”

Bluebeard slapped the bandage-wrapped back of Ghibrid. Ghibrid neither stopped nor looked at him. The sight of one revealed eye between the bandages was more than enough to disgust Chiyou.

“I was better off locked in that crystal. How can the pressure be this intense…”

Though Chiyou could handle Bluebeard with her slyness, Ghibrid was impervious to her tactics. In fact, since Ghibrid’s awakening, Chiyou hadn’t exchanged a single word with him. Could they even communicate? Did he understand human speech? Though she desired to dissolve any hostility, it was questionable if communication was possible with such a being. Chiyou found Ghibrid utterly inscrutable. To her, this kind of entity was the most challenging to deal with.

“Hah, if only the Holy Knight were still here, we wouldn’t have lost the so-called ‘delegate of God.’

Pff! But who in the world did it? Have you found out, Chiyou?”

“Well– Not yet.”

“Oh? Even with your network, there’s something you can’t find?”

“Ah, it’s not that I couldn’t. There’s a nation, Fibiel. I’ve found out that a person named Rotzak, who served as the Chief Mage there… But the reasons and circumstances behind his actions are still unclear, hence ‘not yet.'” Chiyou quickly masked her expression, feigning nonchalance. However, any Middle Earth player could have learned what Chiyou shared by simply visiting the community forums. The original Shinobigumi should have easily acquired information on Rotzak=Kaztor. After all, Fibiel had numerous spies feeding her information.

“Damn it, damn it, damn it! Because of that damned fool–!”

The issue was the current state of affairs. With the war against the creatures mediated and Leeha mentioning Shinobigumi, along with the exposure of real names of players who joined the Demon King’s Army, Chiyou had to significantly reduce her activities in the old continent. This, in turn, led to Shinobigumi’s powerful information network failing to recognize the existence of Kaztor. To make matters worse, Yamato suffered defectors recently. For Chiyou, this was a painful loss of strength, leaving her without the leisure to say “This is why Middle Earth is interesting.”

She was in a difficult position indeed.

“Kaztor?”


“Yes. Yes?”

“Did you just mention Rotzak?”

“That’s correct.”

Bluebeard’s gaze became sharper. It was brief, but Chiyou did not miss it.

“Huh… is that so. So that was it. That idiot…”

“By any chance, does the Count have an acquaintance with Rotzak?”

“Acquaintance? Yes, though not a particularly good one. Well, you might see for yourself soon enough. After pulling off something like that, he can’t stay there any longer. Heh heh.”

“What??

Chiyou tilted her head.

She was aware that Rotzak was the commander of the Fibiel Mage Squad and had participated in the Second Human-Demon War. However, the reaction from Bluebeard… was not just familiarity.

It was not merely about knowing; it indicated an old connection. Chiyou was able to shake off her unease in an instant.

“If I’ll see him soon, what should I prepare, Count? Should I prepare something he would like, or…?

“Ha, quick-witted, I see. Fine, go ahead and prepare. I’m not sure what that mad sorcerer would like, but nothing that could come back to bite me. As long as the ‘chess piece’ he can handle continues to be in my grasp, I would set off to find Pyrot-Cocri right this moment.”

Something he would like. A chess piece he could handle. With these two clues, Chiyou deduced, ‘A traitor, lotzak? And not just any traitor but one holding a significant ace… Seems to have a somewhat deep relationship…even mentioning Pyrot-Cocri, huh?’

Chiyou bit her lip slightly.

‘It feels similar to her.’

The way Bluebeard talked about Rotzak felt ‘horizontal’ rather than ‘vertical’, which reminded Chiyou of someone. Naturally, it was Prea, the sorceress with white eyes.

Chiyou: Sasuke, any new information on Rotzak?

Sasuke: Ah, none yet. Sorry, oka-san.

Chiyou: What about the Fibiel Royal Palace? Still no entry? No word from the spy we planted in the magic corps?

What could Rotzak’s ‘chess piece’ be?

Chiyou started asking Sasuke about the vital details, organizing her thoughts.

Sasuke: Currently, the entire Fibiel Mage Squad is detained and under investigation. Rotzak’s room and laboratory are so tightly secured that even royal family members cannot enter. No one can get in, not even us…

Chiyou: Can’t be helped. Alright, forget about that… How about Prea? Any word on her whereabouts?

Sasuke: That, uh… that too is still… It wasn’t just that.

An absent player, Prea. The fact that she vanished from Bluebeard faction has been quite bothersome for Chiyou.

‘Where on earth did Prea go? Back to the old continent? No, that can’t be.’

Considering the weakened state of the Shinobigumi’s power in the old continent, it was unlikely that she went there to hide.

Prea initially came to the New Continent with a purpose. Meaning, it was more probable for her to stay in the New Continent until she obtained what she wanted.

‘So, she’s in the New Continent, but escaped our surveillance? Anyway, this guy, that woman-‘

Chiyou clenched her teeth. While still clueless about the whereabouts of the ‘item’ Prea initially sought from Chiyou, losing sight of her in the meantime was an issue. What would happen if a player, not fully allied with the Demon King’s Army, returned to humanity’s side? The absolute powerhouses like Bluebeard or Ghibrid might not worry, but for a player affixed to the Demon King’s Army, it was a concern.

(To be continued…)
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“Then Ghibrid, are you ready now?”

“Stop saying that kind of thing! In the end, it’s you who has to step forward if you want to reclaim your power, isn’t it? If the time is right, I’ll send a helper, so don’t worry too much.”

At least in Chiyou’s view, Ghibrid didn’t say anything and was silent. With a mountain of worries outside, it was suffocating to find the situation just as frustrating internally.

“Sigh…”

“Why the sigh, Chiyou? Is it tough?”

“Oh, no, Count.”

Chiyou’s stress had only intensified, enough to let out an involuntary sigh. If Biyemi had seen this scene, she might have given a standing ovation.

“Giggle, well then, you shouldn’t find it hard with this kind of ordeal. You have many things to do ahead.”

“Excuse me?”

“That crazy mage’s welcoming ceremony is going to be handled by your subordinates, isn’t it?”

“That, of course – no, what I mean is, it seems like you’re suggesting there’s another task I need to handle right away, Count.”

Chiyou’s eyes narrowed as she deciphered the intent behind Bluebeard’s words. Bluebeard nodded.

“Well, then. There is indeed a task only you can handle. Well, I’m not sure if you can handle it, but-”

“If it’s something you’re asking of me, I’ll definitely accomplish it.”

“What? Heh, thanking you for saying so feels good! Alright, can you set off right away?”

Whoosh!

As Chiyou looked on with startled eyes, a hologram window appeared in front of her.

『The Bat Hiding in Bransylvania Castle』

Description:


“I’ve finally discovered where that cunning creature is hiding. But, it’s a place I can’t enter directly. You need to go in and deliver ‘My Call’ to it. Oh, and if you die in there, I can’t help you, so remember to be careful, okay?”

Bluebeard had finally found his beloved disciple.

He instructed Chiyou to find “The Blood Maiden” Bathory hiding from the eyes of the United Humanity in Bransylvania Castle and deliver Bluebeard’s will.

Objective: Persuade Bathory inside Bransylvania Castle

Reward: ?

Failure Conditions: Death within Bransylvania Castle or loss of ‘The Call of Bluebeard’ item

Penalty for Failure: ?

– Do you accept?

“How about… going there? It’s okay to refuse.”

Bluebeard played with his hat, smiling. He knew very well that Chiyou had no intention of refusing. Shortly after, both Bluebeard and Chiyou disappeared.

Left alone, Ghibrid gazed at the red crystal he was confined in and muttered,

“…”

Though no other player was left behind, the currents of Middle Earth had already been set in motion. The only remaining player here, Chiyou, had heard Bluebeard instruct Ghibrid clearly.

“Prepare yourself, Ghibrid. Your power is yours to find.”

『…』

As the Old Continent plunged into chaos, another Demon King’s Fragment in the New Continent began to stir silently.

“What about Kaztor…”

“Couldn’t find him. Every nation of the continent cooperated to block the warp gates leading to the New Continent. Even the mana relay towers in the center of the Sea of Dawn are all out on a search, but…”

Browless gritted his teeth.

Over the past week that Leeha had logged out, many changes had occurred within Middle Earth. The most significant event was the thorough investigation of all warp gate users.


Especially those headed to the New Continent had to undergo perfect identity verification, including their items, and anyone with even a slight record of wrongdoing was denied access to the warp gates.

“The royal palace must be in quite a state as well.”

“Indeed. The captain of the royal guard has decided to take full responsibility and resign.”

“Really?”

Leeha looked at Browless with a puzzled expression, and Kidd added more information.

“That’s the bitter truth. The Mage Squad was meant to be disbanded. But since the full investigation hasn’t ended yet, and considering the role it played during the Second Human-Demon War and in national battles, the work is now progressing towards downsizing rather than disbandment.”

For Leeha, this was unavoidably shocking news.

“Oh, my—then, does that mean—”

-Are there many members in the Mage Squad?

-Indeed. It was widely known that a significant number of users aspiring to be mages in PBL aimed to join the Mage Squad as their ultimate goal. But now—oh, how unfair. Those people won’t be able to sleep at night.

The Mage Squad of Fibiel’s Royal Palace, a guild for mages, was a chance to get closer to the power of the Fibiel’s Royal Palace and to receive full support from the nation. Due to one wrong leader, it was now destined to be downsized and reorganized.

“The Royal Guards must be in a frenzy, too.”

“Mmm. From merging with the Sacred Knights to figuring out how to utilize the former comrades, his Majesty is indeed troubled”, Leeha said, sympathetically. Browless nodded in agreement.

It was often criticized that the Royal Guards of Fibiel were more about social gatherings of nobility rather than actual skill. What if the commander of the Royal Guards resigns amidst this?

Would this situation turn into an opportunity for Sacred? What would Nara-ssi think? The Royal Guards have always been a stumbling block to Sacred’s proposals.

With their rivals significantly weakened, this was clearly an opportunity to gain the upper hand. The question that concerned Leeha was, what would be better for strengthening the nation’s power?

‘Nara-ssi would… surely be busy.’

Her place was at the royal palace. Busy was to be expected.

As Kidd mentioned, from the merger of Sacred Knights and the Royal Guards to bringing back figures like Lepanto, Velraid, and Yenoha, who were once called comrades, she seemed to be advising on these matters. Thus, she had to be called upon by many, including the king. Thinking of this, something suddenly crossed Leeha’s mind.

“Ah, Kidd. About what I mentioned last time—”


Before Leeha could finish, Kidd interrupted.

“You can’t go in.”

“Us, too?”

“That’s right. The Mage Squad is currently off-limits to everyone.”

“Hmm?”

As Leeha and Kidd had their conversation, Browless smirked.

“The Mage Squad? Were you trying to enter there?”

“Yes. Kaztor has always used that place as his lab, right? And if no one has touched Kaztor’s lab and office since he disappeared—”

“Indeed. It makes sense to assume the materials he left are there.”

Browless agreed with Leeha’s deduction, and Leeha nodded.

Kidd exchanged glances with Leeha. What could be in there? There could only be one thing.

『In Search of the Lost Records of the Dark Elves』

Description: Retrieving and returning material on the Dark Elves, including the journal of the Archer of Darkness.

Where could it be, the material not found even in the seventh lab in the underground city of Palesto in the New Continent?

‘It must be in his residence.’

Certainly, a Dark Elf talented enough to infiltrate human societies for research purposes. A space where he stayed for a very long period!

The safest place and closest to himself. It wouldn’t make sense for him to create a secret hideout in some bizarre location. Leeha and Kidd came to the conclusion that it couldn’t be.

The most overlooked place is always the darkest. Kaztor didn’t expect his identity to be uncovered there, that day. He underestimated us.`

We weren’t able to kill him but was severely injured and had to flee hastily. It was a dire situation, just managing to save his life.

“Where could he have gone?”

“Huh?”

“There’s no trace of him returning to his exclusive lab for the Mage Squad… He couldn’t have gone to the New Continent already.”

“I’m also worried about that. You can tell just by looking at the letters from Elizabeth and Brown. If Kaztor goes to the New Continent, the likelihood that they will be in danger is high.”

“To be exact, it would be more so than the seniors.”

“Hmm, Kyle… That guy will be in danger.”

Browless’s expression darkened. Elizabeth and Brown had taken on an adventure to bring the cursed Kyle to a spot where Kaztor’s mana couldn’t reach.

However, they only succeeded halfway. Moreover, the possibility of provoking further anger had also increased. They, who were confident they could kill anyone who followed, had only one fear, for the blade of danger was not pointed at them, but towards their son.

They were always worried about the possibility of being pursued. It wasn’t just about being unable to speak casually, but the high chance that something with tracking abilities was out there. If that was the case-

Kaztor would pursue Elizabeth and Brown.

For him, who had lost everything, the only thing left was to control Elizabeth and Brown through Kyle, who had become the “Arcane Sniper.”

The reason Elizabeth and Brown initially went to the eastern part of the New Continent, where space movement didn’t work, and kept moving deeper to hide, was precisely because of this.

‘Then we should pursue the seniors-”

“No, it might be impossible. If they asked me to kill Kaztor, then they must have some way of knowing whether Kaztor is dead or alive.”

“That’s a possibility too.”

Just by looking at Kyle’s condition, one might be able to determine whether Kaztor is alive or not. Browless guessed, and Leeha nodded.

So, what method would Brown and Elizabeth choose upon realizing that Kaztor has not died?

“They will go even further away. I’m not sure if there’s a safe refuge, but at least to the wilds.”

“Yes. They won’t stop. Given Kaztor’s chances of finding them first, they won’t stop moving.”

In other words, the middle path now, as hinted through Browless, was a waste of effort in pursuing Elizabeth and Brown.

‘Then, Kidd, will you stay here?”

“My priority is the investigation of the Mage Squad. To find his traces, to pursue-”

Clack, Kidd fiddled with the Crimson Geckos.

“-I will definitely kill him.”

“I wish I could join you on that journey.”

Browless showed a faint smile upon hearing his beloved disciple’s resolve. Leeha nodded.

That was something Leeha also deeply wished for, but he couldn’t just wait here indefinitely.

“Well then, headmaster, I’ll take a look around in my own way.”

“Hmm. Work hard, Leeha. If you can enter the palace and walk around the Mage Squad’s building or if you discover materials containing information about Kaztor, notify me immediately.”

“Yes, thank you.”

At this moment, Kidd and Leeha were not rivals. Everyone shared a common enemy and had to pursue them together.

There wouldn’t be anyone who’d blandly say ‘I want to see the Arcane Sniper’ journal by myself’ at this point, except for Luger.

“By the way, what is Luger doing?”

As Leeha was leaving the academy, he opened the friend panel of the Three Musketeers. Luger was in the underground city of the Gorilla paleos.

…Ah! That’s right, -there’s a possibility there?!”

Kaztor’s hideout in the New Continent! If Kaztor had already arrived at the New Continent by some method, wouldn’t it be most likely for him to head to his former dwelling?

“Not in his original body, but judging by his appearance just before disappearing, he must have sustained some injury. Plus, if he caused a big enough incident to end the Pope’s life, then it would naturally make sense for him to lay low for a while. With that in mind… hiding among the beings who had shown him kindness before seems like the most logical thought. Anyway, Luger, that beast of a man!”

At least this time, Leeha too couldn’t help but admire Luger.

Luger, who hasn’t been able to attend the most crucial event.

Given his character, he’d probably feel wronged and launch more than ten cannonballs into the air. But even in the midst of that, he would calmly, almost instinctively, deduce Kaztor’s next destination.

(To be continued…)
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“Luger! What do you have there?”

“Don’t talk to me, you betrayer. How dare you… without saying anything to me… sneakily… leaving me there alone…”

Luger grumbled in a voice dripping with resentment. Leeha burst into laughter, imagining his sullen face.

“Oh, come on! Being so rude to someone offering to exchange information!”

“Y-you! What did you say?! You have something else to tell?”

“I was there. Do you think I might know a few more things than you do?”

With a mix of playful and serious tones, Leeha stirred Luger’s emotions.

“And right now, it’s the paleo Gorilla Tribe! Seriously, you could just teleport there! I have it saved in my crystal.”

“Then….”

“But hey, I was being nice, offering you a chance to listen! If you don’t like it, fine. Keep digging there forever. Ah! If Kaztor really heads that way… you know you’re dead, right? Even me, headmaster Browless, Kidd, and all kinds of people couldn’t catch him, remember that.”

Leeha’s alternating use of carrot and stick was something not many in Middle Earth could withstand.

“Turn it on.”

“What?”

“Chain Teleport turn it on! I’ll message you immediately if Kaztor shows up.”

“What about the information?”

“… When it’s out.”

“I can’t hear you~?”

If anyone saw Leeha’s face, they’d wonder what kind of person he was, smirking mischievously amid the chaos of the capital, cackling to himself.

“I said I’ll tell you, you damned fool! I could fly there right now and knock some sense into your—”


“Keke, okay! Don’t turn off the chain teleport! Hit me up when you’re done, good luck~” Leeha was about to cut off the conversation again after saying his piece.

Luger pondered the next investigation site for a moment. The forest inhabited by Dark Elves?

“No, Kaztor is less likely to go there. We’d just end up being tailed for nothing. What could returning to a homeland abandoned a hundred years ago accomplish? After all, the Dark Elves are the ones who asked us to track Kaztor. They’re less likely to hide him or show any kindness.”

Aware that Leeha, Kidd, and Luger had begun their pursuit, Kaztor would have ruled out such options long ago.

“It looks like we’ve checked all possible locations… Ugh, for now, we just have to wait for the research institute’s results at the Royal Magic Academy.”

Or wait for Luger’s intel. Leeha contacted Blaugrunn to ensure they were ready for battle at any moment.

“But will I be of any help there?”

“Why are you like that? They say a single mistake is forgivable.”

“If Blaugrunn-ssi isn’t there, we can’t even fight! Besides, you’re just a kid right now.”

“What?”

“You’re still a Juvenile. It’s normal for teenagers to make mistakes and wander. If you don’t straighten up, will Bahamut scold you?”

“If you put it that way—”

“Cheer up. Don’t worry. Blaugrunn-ssi, you did nothing wrong. Nobody thinks so.”

The Juvenile Bronze Dragon was despondent, thinking his delayed casting had let Kaztor escape. Leeha reassured him, boosting his confidence once more.

After chatting, contacting various people, and setting up an information network, Leeha finally managed to visit the City of Gazia.

“Bottleneck-ssi! Is everything I asked for ready?”

“Whoo, Leeha, what do you take me for? Asking me to manage that in just a week, do you think that’s something a human can do?”

Hearing Bottleneck’s sigh, Leeha glanced at the ground for a moment, fearing the earth might sink under the weight of a dwarf’s deep resentment. Indeed, it was a justified concern. On the day of the incident, after wrapping everything up, the last place Leeha visited was Gaza City, to meet with Bottleneck. The purpose? To encounter Bottleneck.

“Hmm… well, since I’m not a dwarf, that does sound like something a human would say, doesn’t it?”

“This darn…! I might as well go back to Hell Anvil! If it keeps up like this—”


“Ah, why go on like that, dear Chief Engineer? I was thinking of getting you a few guns made by the bonobo folk when we head to the New Continent next time.”

“… What?”

“I told you, the bonobo paleos made guns. One of their mystical creatures created a rifle almost identical to Luger’s Cobalt Blue Python! Aren’t you curious about that?”

“Well, curious, yes but—”

Handling an infuriated dwarf was a piece of cake for Leeha. Hadn’t ‘Koba’ been seen handling one in the midst of battle with those mystical creatures? From that moment, Leeha had only one thing on their mind.

“If Bottleneck-ssi can make, or even if he can’t make but can take inspiration from, an item similar to the Cobalt Blue Python—”

“We could once again enhance the Black Bass, is that what you mean?”

“Exactly.”

A significant improvement of skills! To track and contest Kaztor, this was indeed essential. Of course, the easiest way to enhance one’s prowess was to refurbish one’s items.

“So, let’s see what you made with the materials from Toon I gave you, shall we?”

“Damn it, you can’t help but trap me in this every time—”

“What??”

“Follow me! I’ll show you what I’ve made with those damned dinosaur claws and bones!”

It wasn’t just a refurbishment for Leeha alone, but a crucial moment for the overall enhancement of the skills of the users who trusted and followed Leeha.

“The claws have been fashioned into daggers. They’re designed to be carried at the waist without hindrance.”

“Ah, I can see the carefully honed edges. They seem shorter than originally, no?”

“Of course! Do you want to swing around with the root of the claw in battle? Adjusting for a suitable length and ensuring only the most robust and sharp parts remain means reducing size is inevitable!”

“So, that’s why it’s a good thing. Why the anger, then~”

Leeha playfully massaged Bottleneck’s shoulder. Just looking at the pair of daggers before them invoked the majestic aura of Toon.

“Any special features?”


“One of its characteristics was also infused into the claw.”

“Characteristics?”

As if questioning the necessity of his own explanation, Bottleneck handed the dagger to Leeha. 『Legendary Dinosaur Claw Daggers that Drain Mana』

Attack Power: User’s Strength/2 + User’s Agility

Type: Melee,

One-Handed Weapon

Effect: Removes target’s held mana (24 hours limit)

Required Conditions: Strength 200 or above, agility 2,000 or above, intelligence 400 or above

Description: The claws of Toon, the Supreme Giant Monster Commander from the Second Human-Demon War. Toon, who did not use magic, was feared by the coalition’s mages because he inherently had the ability to dispel mana. Not only could he scream to use a wide-range dispel, but he also personally swung his claws at great magic users like dragons, forcing them to pay the price. This was why all mana holders in Middle Earth had no choice but to fear the name of Toon.

“Dispel!”

“Right. Perhaps the effect is limited to once a day because there’s only one claw.”

“That alone is incredible, isn’t it!? What about the amount of mana it can remove? How much can it handle?”

“I wouldn’t know. How could I possibly test that?”

“Ah, right.”

Pondering testing it on someone? It would result in immediate death. Strictly speaking, Bottleneck had not ‘created’ this item, but rather ‘processed’ it, so it was natural to be clueless about the true effects of Toon’s claw.

“No, if there had been any restrictions… there would have been an explanation, like the situation now.”

A 24-hour limitation means the mana removal effect can only be used once a day. If there had been any restrictions on the amount of mana removal, Middle Earth would certainly have noted it.

“For instance, it could only remove as much mana as the user has, or- well, considering Toon originally doesn’t possess mana or use magic, the clue should have been something like it only removes as much mana as the user has. But there’s no such indication, meaning it’s unlimited.

This literally suggests an unrestricted mana removal. At this revelation, a chill ran down everyone’s spine.

The most commonly circulated weapon in Middle Earth is the ‘one-handed sword’.

However, that’s just the type of ‘weapon’. What about when classifying ‘combat styles’?

It would not be an exaggeration to say that the most widespread are the magic-user classes.

“Elementalists, dark mages, warlocks, mages, dark Mages, spellcasters, sages, flame Mages, ice mages, mages, necromancers, even Lady Rubini’s Oracle belongs to the magic-user classes… not to mention, a significant number of professions require the use of skills, not just basic attacks, relying heavily on mana!

Just think about how many magic-user classes come to mind that players play the most, and what about other jobs? What lies in their hands is practically an anti-mage weapon.

“Bottleneck-ssi! This is why! This is why I really like you!”

“Only at times like this!”

“Really, really! How can you make a weapon with such functions, in such a sleek and beautiful ‘form’? I couldn’t do it even if I were beaten to death.”

“Mhm, of course! What ability do you think you have to make something like this?”

Bottleneck shrugged off with a feigned indifference, but even that brought joy to Leeha. The dagger made from Toon’s claw boasted such powerful functionality.

Moreover, for someone with unusually high agility like Leeha, the attack power of the dagger was almost unparalleled. What more could they need?

“The problem might be Ram Hwayeon… Hmm. It was one of the items intended for her, but requiring an agility of 2,000 is a bit of a flaw.

No matter how much she advanced with the help of Ram Hwajung’s hunting achievements, for a Flame Mage like her to achieve 2,000 agility was out of the question.”

Well, it’s not my place to worry.”

Ram Hwayeon is someone who…

Whether she can use it or not, having an item named 『Toon』 means she will employ all possible methods to extract its maximum efficiency.

She would use whatever means necessary.

“What are you standing around for? Next is the shield. I used only two out of the three chestplate pieces.”

“Oh? You didn’t use all three?”

“Using all three would make it too big and inefficient. You wouldn’t even be able to carry it. That’s not what you wanted in the first place.”

“Um… That’s true. It was already clear since it was just a chest piece or a fragment. Of course, a dinosaur’s ‘chest armor’ would be huge.”

“Here, take the remaining chest piece for now.”

Bottleneck fumbled around and presented a piece of Toon’s chestplate. It was as white and pristine as when it was first looted by Leeha.

“And this is… the shield.”

“This?”

While Leeha was busy putting the chest piece into the bag, Bottleneck lifted the shield made from Toon’s chestplate.

The size was impractical for use by a dwarf, being disproportionately large, but what first caught Leeha’s eye was not its size or shape.

“This, you say?”

(To be continued…)
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“It was quite fascinating. I’ve heard about a subtype of the Cockatrice that possessed these features, but this is my first time seeing one in person.”

“No… How… How can it change like this…?”

Bottleneck flashed a dashing smile, even making an analogy to a Cockatrice, a monster that is a combination of a snake and a chicken. Probably because for him as well, it wasn’t an everyday occurrence to come across such a unique ingredient item.

However, Leeha had no choice but to be a bit flustered.

“Just take it, will you! In terms of ‘defence’, darn it, I swear by the God of the Anvil, I’ve never seen anything superior to this! How in the world did those damned dinosaurs look like!”

“Ah, yes. So first-”

Leeha awkwardly received the shield made of two pieces of Toon’s carapace fused together.

Even while listening to Bottleneck’s explanation, Leeha couldn’t fully focus on his words. He was utterly captivated by the appearance of the shield.

“-and that’s as far as we could check, but we couldn’t unlock any further abilities. The person who you intends to give this is Master Kay, right? That Templar who looked so clueless has now become a Holy Knight… Anyway, he might be able to pull it off. Did you get that?”

“Huh? Yes? Oh, yes. Kay will figure it out.”

“That’s not what I mean-”

“He’s gotta try it to know. Thank you, sir! I’ll make sure to stop by Kay and express my gratitude as well!”

After leaving Bottleneck’s smithy, the next destination was where Kay and Ram Hwayeon were located. Leeha wore a bewildered and amused expression, somewhat out of his senses.

“Kay! Ram Hwayeon-ssi! What brings you two together?”

“Hyung!”

“Ah, hello?”

Leeha arrived at the Ezwen capital. A significant number of low-level users from Fibiel, who had low affinity with Ezwen, had been expelled from there. The place was still in the process of sorting out the mess, causing much confusion, and that’s where Kay and Ram Hwayeon were found.

“It’s… because of that.”

“The Conclave?”


“Yes. Can’t leave the capital of Ezwen until it’s over. I thought they usually lock you up inside the papal building. At least I should be thankful they let me move around here.”

Kay gave a wry smile and self-mockingly commented. Though he had successfully transitioned to a Holy Knight, at the moment of his class change, he had been assaulted by Ghibrid and had logged out. Upon logging back in, he found the Pope, who had appointed him as a Holy Knight, had already passed away in a rather absurd turn of events.

Even Leeha felt Kay’s fate seemed bitterly twisted.

“So, Ram Hwayeon-ssi is-”

“As the sole representative of Fibiel here, where could I go? Naturally, I should be here. There’s some information we need to share with each other.”

“Share? You and Kay?”

Ram Hwayeon nodded with a warm smile.

Ram Hwayeon: It’s about the change of the Guards’ captain. Fibiel’s eyes are fully turned towards the New Continent now.”

Leeha: What?

Ram Hwayeon: You know my connections with the royal family are quite strong, right? One of the most viable options is the formation of a so-called ‘Kaztor Search Party’.”

There were many opinions on who would succeed as guard captain, how the Sacred Knights would react, and so forth. Among these many opinions, what choice would Fibiel’s king make?

Leeha was quite curious about this, and Ram Hwayeon had somewhat figured out what was in the king’s hands.

Leeha looked surprised, to which Ram Hwayeon shrugged her shoulders.

Ram Hwayeon: Why are you so surprised? It’s obvious. With the Kaztor Incident, a considerable number of knights dispatched to the New Continent have returned. Currently, only a handful of people are defending the ‘Divine Staff’. Do you think Ezwen will just stand by and watch this situation? They need to send some very important people’ to the New Continent to make Fibiel accountable. Although it’s a form of ‘punitive pressure’, it’s the best Ezwen can do for now, at least from Cardinal Romero’s point of view.

Leeha: …I see. Weakening Fibiel’s national power in the Old Continent, but on the flip side, doing so would–provide a reason for other countries to dispatch their knights to the New Continent again. You’ve become quite perceptive, haven’t you? Well, this is all assuming Cardinal Romero becomes the Pope.

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha with an impressed expression.

That is to say, the so-called ‘Kaztor Search Party’, while partly a result of Fibiel’s own volition, was largely influenced by external pressure and international situations—essentially, a ‘determined future’.

‘Who’s going to be part of the ‘Kaztor Search Party’?

Ram Hwayeon: It’s still a secret, but the general framework is set.

Leeha: So, who? Who is –


As Leeha pressed for an answer with an insistent gaze, Ram Hwayeon shook her head with a decidedly ominous expression.

Leeha: Why? Why won’t you answer – Ah… Ah, right. I didn’t come here to ask this, totally slipped my mind. Hehe.

Leeha quickly realized his mistake.

Wasn’t this just figuring out what he wanted to know and then ending up embarrassed about it?

Knowing this would disappoint Ram Hwayeon, who had expectations from him!

Not wanting to disappoint Ram Hwayeon again for such reasons, Leeha hurriedly changed the subject and rummaged through his bag.

“What are you up to, hyung? You two seem to be whispering about something fierce.”

“Just wait a bit, dude. I’ve got something for you.”

Leeha then pulled out a dagger he had made from the claw of Toon. Ram Hwayeon stared at it icily. But even then, she didn’t soften her expression.

Flashing a smile upon receiving a gift? Ram Hwayeon wasn’t one to exhibit such ‘novice’ behavior.

“Here, Ram Hwayeon-ssi. Always being so helpful, and I haven’t much to give but.”

“……. Is this for me?”

‘Wouldn’t dare say, with you singing that song so eagerly, I couldn’t stand not giving it to you!’

But Leeha was no fool to verbalize such thoughts. With a bright smile, Leeha nodded affirmatively.

“Of course. Ram Hwayeon-ssi, I made this especially for you. Only for you. Will you accept it?”

His words were not untrue; after feeling hesitant about giving the claw as is, he had commissioned Bottleneck to process it.

However, the understanding Ram Hwayeon derived from Leeha’s words was perfectly divergent.

Ram Hwayeon bowed her head deeply, as if the phrase “I made it especially for you” allowed sufficient interpretation, making Kijung suddenly fan his face.

Kijung: Ts, ts, ts-

Leeha: Ts? What’s up all of a sudden? Got a problem with your tongue?


Kijung wanted to ask, “Do you know what you’re implying? Giving a claw instead of a ring and saying stuff like that?”

But Leeha quieted him with just a glare.

…

“Thanks.”

“Huh?”

Leeha couldn’t catch Ram Hwayeon’s whisper of gratitude, quieter than the sound of ants marching.

As Leeha approached, Ram Hwayeon abruptly raised her head and voice.

“Thanks-my-foot! Given all I’ve taught you till now, it’s a steal! Right? A pretty and kind castle lord who meticulously hands out Castle Dale’s earnings day by day – where else would you find one in this world! Right?”

No sooner had she started hitting Leeha’s back did she pivot away, leaving Leeha unable to hide his astonishment.

‘This woman? Makes a fuss even when given! Should’ve not bothered giving! Wish I’d hit a bit harder!’

Kijung, from just a look at Leeha’s face, could tell what was on his mind. Thus, with a face full of sympathy, he couldn’t help but look at Ram Hwayeon’s back.

“Ah, Kijung, this is for you.”

“Huh? For me?”

Just as Kijung was about to say, “Must be tough on you”, to Ram Hwayeon, Leeha pulled out another item from his bag.

“Heh, look at this, ta-da!”

“…… Hyung? What is this?”

“A shield.”

“Uh, a shield? This is? Made from the spine of the Demon King?”

Kijung’s reaction sent Leeha into fits of laughter. The reason Leeha had been amazed at the Bottleneck smithy was precisely this. The shield, with its jet-black color revealing the form of bone, attracted attention from users passing through Ezwen capital, making them stop and stare.

“Look, that person – He’s the 『Toon Slayer』… It’s Leeha.”

“Toon Slayer? Him? So, that means it’s made from the materials obtained from killing Toon?”

“Wow, what’s that? Just having it seems like it would decrease your affinity with Ezwen.”

“Should we ask?”

“Are you crazy? That person is a 『Holy Knight』! Don’t get cocky and end up getting hit, just stay here!”

“And look, it’s Ram Long Group’s young mistress in their company!”

“Why are the three of them here? No, let’s take a screenshot first!”

“Idiot, you think you won’t get caught?”

The murmurs of the users reached Leeha, Kijung, and Ram Hwayeon. Initially attracted by the item, users began raising their voices upon recognizing Leeha and Kijung, eventually leading to mention of Ram Hwayeon who was with them.

“Phew, Leeha, do you even think? What are you doing bringing out such an eye-catching item here?”

“I didn’t expect it to draw this much attention. Really, if it’s not Gaza City, it’s hard to have a peaceful conversation anywhere. Being famous is tiring.”

“That’s exactly what I want to say, hyung. You and Lady Ram Hwayeon at least have your families to return to… I’m just down on my luck. Without the Safe House of Byulcho, I wouldn’t have a place to hide.”

Is being famous a good thing? At least the three of them had no interest in this question. They were people who felt not even a flicker of excitement for the benefits or pleasures of fame.

“Here, take it! If Kijung carries it around, it will definitely catch eyes! Stop complaining and take it!”

“But, what’s with this dark thing? What is it?”

“It’s made from Toon’s bones. When processed, it turned black. Hehe, it’s not like Toon was some rare breed of chicken. Well, dinosaurs are ancestors of chickens, so maybe it’s somewhat related?”

This was one of Bottleneck’s explanations. Among the subspecies of the chimera-like monster cockatrice, there are those with jet-black bones. These creatures, whose bones, feathers, and even the snake’s body turn black, are discriminated against and hated even among their own kind, eventually leaving to live alone.

“However… such individuals possess much greater power than ordinary monsters.”

While listening to Bottleneck’s explanations about cockatrices and their subspecies, Leeha suddenly remembered something. The outcast of the Saurus race. Maybe this was also a reason why Toon had to leave his homeland.

“Well, until we meet another Saurus, it’s hard to know for sure. But it wasn’t just the color that attracted attention. As Kijung and other users marveled, the shield made from Toon’s breastplate literally preserved the texture of the bone, adding another unique aspect.

“The shield I’m currently using is the Tower Shield, not a Kite Shield with this awkward Heater Shield shape… Ugh, of course it’s good since you’re giving it, but this is something beginner tanks would use-”

“Shut it! Just try holding it!”

Kijung, looking quite reluctant. There was already nothing lacking in the performance of the shield he had enhanced through Bottleneck, but he had issues with the shield’s type not fitting his combat style. The Tower Shield, a huge rectangle blocking a significant portion of the user’s body. Kite Shields, resembling stingrays but slightly more rounded, offer length. Not just the top, in the worst case, stooping low could perfectly shield even below the knees with them. But a Heater Shield? It was somewhat awkward, named for its resemblance to the bottom of an iron, like a Kite Shield chopped off. If it weren’t for the grotesque appearance of being made from Toon’s bones, even Leeha might have been flustered by its clumsy look.
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Kijung extended his hand and received a shield from Leeha.

The shield featured a pitch-black skeleton framework narrowing downwards at its edges, each border alive with joints and textures reminiscent of real bone.

On both sides, the bone’s joints created a symmetrical border, filling the center literally with a “bone plate”.

From the broadest parts of a great breastplate piece, an ideal processing was completed, ensuring the pieces interlocked without falling apart.

Intimidating at its borders, the shield’s main defensive region boasted a smooth and robust bone surface, maximizing its efficiency. Leeha marveled at Bottleneck’s craftsmanship.

There was no questioning the skill involved.

‘But no matter how you look at it, this thing screams Demon Army, not Holy Knight. It would be more fitting to call it a Dark Knight!’

The problem lay in a Holy Knight having to wield an item that maximized aesthetic and practical traits.

Leeha wondered if there might have been a way to leverage the black color differently, considering the user’s profession and characteristics, but it felt too late for such thoughts now.

‘It’s surprisingly light?’

Observing Kijung, who was adjusting the shield and moving his arms up and down, Leeha couldn’t help but be amazed. The second in command of Bluebeard, master Kay of the Dark Knight!

“Pff-”

“The monochrome harmony is quite striking, don’t you think, master Kay?”

As Leeha barely held back a laugh indulging in needless fantasies, it was Ram Hwayeon who interpreted it in a completely different way.

“Is that so? It does feel a bit awkward-”

“Items of the Templars are generally endorsed by the grace of Ezwen… Following the divine color, pure white is good, but too much white can be boring. It seems like a great touch to me.”

Ram Hwayeon praised Kijung with a thumbs-up, and initially uncomfortable Kijung began to regain confidence, inspired by her words. Leeha wondered whether Ram Hwayeon’s comment was a mere lip service for information exchange or if she truly possessed exceptional aesthetic sense, but the answer wasn’t straightforward.

However, one thing became clear after hearing Ram Hwayeon’s comment:

“But it really is better than I thought?”


Leeha found himself agreeing with that sentiment.

“Really? You think so too, huh?”

“It doesn’t quite fit the whole Holy Knight name, though…”

Maybe the contrast added to its charm?

Kijung, holding the shield made of dark bones, looked far more dignified and trustworthy than before. Kijung’s expression suddenly hardened while swinging the shield.

“What’s wrong? You’ll make me anxious if you do that.”

Leeha feigned surprise, but nothing in particular seemed to have caused Kijung’s change in expression.

“Hyung, did you read this item’s description?”

“Description? Oh, I heard something earlier but didn’t catch it properly. What’s it say?”

“Crazy.”

“What’s crazy?”

Kijung swallowed nervously.

“No, not you, hyung… this…”

Kijung shook his head, unable to continue speaking.

“What’s wrong with it?”

“If this is what I think it is, then… it’s absolutely insane.”

“So what is it already!”

“Let’s test it! I’ll let you know after the test.”

Kijung frantically pulled out a crystal ball, but Ram Hwayeon’s hand stopped him.

“Exorcism Cardinal?”


“…Ah, the conclave! Ahhhh! I want to get out of here quickly!”

Ram Hwayeon expressed, once again reminding us of her inability to leave the Ezwen Monastery for days.

Leeha was freshly curious about why Kijung was making such a fuss, but Kijung wouldn’t tell.

“I’ll test it and then I’ll tell you.”

He just kept repeating.

“Fine. I am curious but can’t help it. I must be going now.”

“Where to?”

“The New Continent. I have to explain the Resistance movement to the paleos. Since the Pope is not around, it can’t be done right away, though.”

“Then you should pray as well.”

“Pray? What prayer?”

Leeha tilted his head as Kijung spoke. The plan to organize the paleos into a Resistance was a proposal that Kijung, the representative of the users, had to submit to the Pope himself.

Of course, with the Pope’s position currently vacant, nothing could be done about it.

But prayer? What was there to pray for?

“That Romero will be elected as the next Pope.”

“Romero? Oh, right, voting. Haha, but wouldn’t that mean voting for yourself? I’ll have to scream at you.”

Leeha joked, laughing, but Kijung did not take the jest lightly, his face grave. The probability of Kijung being elected Pope in the current conclave was close to 0%.

However, Kijung had another reason why he couldn’t just laugh it off.

“It’s not a laughing matter. If Romero is not elected as the next Pope… much of the New Continent issues will be ignored. A Resistance? Such a proposal would likely be discarded immediately. The ‘search team’ that Ram Hwayeon-ssi spoke of might also be completely annulled.”

Listening to Kijung’s brief explanation, Leeha’s eyes widened.

There was a cardinal who argued that, due to the Rotzak/Kaztor issue causing national decline, the focus should not be on the practically non-threatening New Continent but on consolidating the core of the Old Continent first.


“Chairman of the Nine Cardinals’ Committee-”

“Day”

The chairman of the Nine Cardinals’ Committee, ‘Tusculani’.

“With how much influence that man has in Ezwen… It’s not good to mention his name recklessly and get marked.”

It was only after hearing Kijung’s words that Leeha slowly nodded.

The moment Rotzak was revealed as Kaztor, the individual present at that conference room was also someone Leeha vividly remembered.

This too was a grand quest given to the users of Ezwen. If Tusculani becomes the new Pope?

Leeha had to shake his head at the terrible imagination. First, the 『Divine Staff』 would be ended.

Second, Ghibrid would regain full strength, and third… Bluebeard, unfettered by anything, would begin to spread his wings.

“Naturally, he will search for another dormant Demon King’s Fragment! But that’s not all. The threats are endless!”

To say there were no real threats in the New Continent was something only those who had never set foot there could say. The biggest reason the Old Continent could regain peace was because “A significant number of monsters, including Bluebeard, are running wild in the New Continent! And if they aren’t stopped there- they will come to the Old Continent. By then, it would be too late for regrets.

“Possibilities?”

“Not favorable. No matter how positive we think, cardinal Romero’s faction is only about 20%. Even though priests and bishops who have seen battle support Cardinal Romero, most of those with the actual voting power, the cardinals, haven’t even been to the New Continent. It’s not the time to be making jokes about voting for yourself.”

Kijung, who had not been roaming around Ezwen as Holy Knight for long, had quickly grasped the power dynamics.

Of course, this was possible thanks to the help of Fernand, an exceptional user from Ezwen, and Ram Hwayeon with her excellent network of information.

“Can we turn it around?”

“I don’t know. That’s why… we need something significant. Something that can make them truly feel the threat of the New Continent…”

Kijung clenched his fist in disappointment and let out a sound as it collided with the air.

“Okay, got it. Looks like we have to head to the New Continent”, Leeha said, casually leaning his chin on his hand.

“Right? What can an hyung do, after all? Let’s just pray together.”

“That’s something unknown.”

“What?”

“If there’s no way, we have to make one.”

Leeha took out the crystal ball and activated it.

“That’s how I do things.”

Swoosh…!

As Leeha vanished, Kijung tilted his head, puzzled about what he was planning to do.

“What did he just say?”

Ram Hwayeon didn’t hear Kijung’s question. Her mind was filled with a single thought, “How unnecessarily cool, causing such a stir.”

How could she hide her flushed cheeks, heated by Leeha’s parting words, from Kijung? That was her only concern.

“Definitely reckless.”

Many of the knightly banners that once fluttered around Juma City had vanished, showing significant departures. Considering that not long ago, there was not enough room inside the city walls, forcing people to set up makeshift camps beyond them, it was evident how many knights had returned home following the Kaztor incident.

“It’s a spectacle of human nature, isn’t it? Immersed in their own interests without knowing what truly matters.”

“Don’t be so cynical, Blaugrunn-ssi. Such is an inevitable aspect of group life and society”, Leeha said, countering Blaugrunn’s grumbling, albeit still feeling a sting in his heart. After all, hadn’t he too suffered tremendous pain because of that selfishness?

“Humans are on the other side too. Gathered for the same reason, it’s complicated… This damned game.”

After surveying the situation in Juma City, Leeha went to check on the “Divine Staff” first.

“Hmm… Eleven people? Just one more than two parties. Not enough for a raid.”

Near the Divine Staff, merely eleven people were guarding, a dramatically reduced number compared to the previous contingent of up to one hundred and fifty knights on duty.

“Did you come here after receiving the quest to protect the 『Divine Staff』?”

“Party up? What level are you? Ah, have I seen you somewhere… Ah, Leeha? It’s Leeha!”

The users, rather than keeping guard, were chatting in small groups. They recognized Leeha immediately and approached him. Any user who had participated in the battle against paleos would never forget Leeha’s face, the man who silenced Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and paleo with a single bullet, captured Lark, and pacified mystical creatures to send them back.

Leeha gathered various information from them and returned to Juma City. Among the eleven, only about three belonged to the knight order 1.48%, and the rest were in Juma City to take up the quest to guard this place.

“Guarding, huh?”

The users, huddled together in idle chatter, how could they possibly protect anything?

“Well, better than nothing. It would be a relief if they could at least rush to Juma in an emergency.”

One thing was clear, though. The situation in the New Continent was much worse than Leeha had anticipated.

“The ideal would be to utilize the paleos… But to rope in the paleos, we need the power of the 『Holy Knight』.”

“I was planning to explain the idea and have Kijung get an official dispatch from the Papacy the moment the conclave ends. But the moment the conclave ends—” The possibility that all human alliances could withdraw from the New Continent was a scenario that had to be considered!

“Aaaaah… What can we do if there seems to be no way?”

Seeing the severity beyond his expectations, Leeha felt utterly disheartened. The only possibility was to revive the paleos.

“Not as a resistance, but to attack Juma City once more? Not too aggressively. Maybe then the knight orders would have to dispatch urgently. But if, by doing that, paleos or a mystical creature ends up dying, that would be problematic.”

What Leeha wanted was a ‘performance’ until the conclave ended. However, if there’s a hothead who can’t distinguish between performance and reality, there’s also a chance for a significant incident.

“And it’s not like there’s only one or two of those fools.”

(To be Continued…)
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How many times had he sighed, arms crossed over his chest?

Blaugrunn blinked slowly, looking up at Leeha with a steady gaze.

“Worrying like that will only turn your hair white.”

“What? Where did you even hear such a thing?”

“The Lord mentioned it, didn’t he? Said he got white hair from pondering over the continent’s justice and order.”

Leeha couldn’t help but burst into laughter at the seriousness of it all.

“Pffft! Oh, come on. The Lord, with the dignity of a Platinum Dragon, saying things like that – And you, Blaugrunn, a dragon believing such talk?”

“The Lord’s words are the truth.”

“Ergh… Well, if you put it that way, I’m at a loss for words, truly. As if changing white hair is anything challenging for the leader of the metal dragons—”

At that moment, an idea flashed through Leeha’s mind.

“Hmm?”

“What’s wrong, Leeha-nim?”

“Hold on, hold on… there might be a way… No, it’s a bit rough, but it seems worth a try?”

“Really?”

Blaugrunn tilted his head in query, but Leeha didn’t reply. Instead, he looked directly at Blaugrunn.

“Blaugrunn.”

“Yes?”

“Right now… We’re not in a master-servant relationship, are we?”

“Of course not. We are partners, after all.”


“We care for each other, but we’re not beholden to one another, right?”

“Exactly. Why bring this up all of a sudden?”

Leeha’s eyes sparkled.

“Don’t look at me with those eyes! Whenever Leeha-nim gets that look, it always leads to—”

“Quiet! Just help me out already! This is all for the ‘justice and order’ the Lord desires!”

Seeing Leeha’s face twisted into a mischievous grin, Blaugrunn cringed, but it was too late. Those gathered around the 『Divine Staff』 were already buzzing with talk about the recent event.

“Did you hear? They say Leeha-nim did it himself.”

The speculation was rampant. No one really knew. As Leeha himself hadn’t clarified the circumstances or process of the deed, wild stories were inevitable.

There were whispers of a solo play, a team effort, a raid party formation, cooperation among the Three Musketeers, the involvement of Byulcho, even tales of a ‘Dragon Strike Force’ led by famed dragon knight Alexander and others.

The most sensational and seemingly miraculous version was the ‘solo play kill’, which, in reality, was almost true for Leeha, but for those who barely knew or only knew of him in passing, other theories naturally abounded.

“The guy seems nice enough but doesn’t look that strong. Alexander truly is the best.”

“Ah, Alexander the Great! To hunt in a party with him just once would be a dream.”

“Idiot, you’re too low-level to even gain experience.”

“But even that would be an honor. To say you’ve partied with Alexander is a glory to your family.”

The intent of their gathering, which was supposedly about ‘vigilance’, was nowhere to be seen among the chattering crowd.

Even as they spoke with Leeha, particularly about measures for vigilance and emergency situations, none of it seemed to have stuck.

“So, just a few more hours of guarding, right?”

“We seem to have about eight hours left. Just cracking open some nuts and increasing our Ezwen familiarity like this is nice.”

“Heh, exactly. Over these three days, the only monster we’ve encountered was a single ogre, if I recall.”

The quest to protect and guard the 『Divine Staff』 was given by a bishop dispatched to Juma City from Ezwen. Following the Kaztor incident, this quest was like a long-awaited rain for Fibiel users, whose familiarity with Ezwen had sharply decreased. However, because a certain level of Ezwen’s familiarity was required to accept the quest, not many users undertook it.


In the New Continent, there wasn’t an urgent need for Ezwen’s familiarity, and a quest that required investing three full days wasn’t particularly appealing to users exploring the New Continent.

“Anyway, as for us-”

“Contact, about 800m ahead, a giant figure spotted!”

The chattering users all turned their heads in the same direction. Three members of the knight order were diligently on their mission.

One among them, possessing specialized abilities in scouting and observation, spotted something approaching from a distance.

“What’s that?”

“Monster? Or, sir Knight, how many?”

“Ah, seems like a good chance to stretch a bit.”

The users exaggeratedly stretched their muscles while drawing their weapons. The knight frowned while sharing the observation results.

“Just one. Humanoid.”

“A humanoid? Again?”

“Eh, boring, boring.”

“But it’s a form we haven’t seen before.”

“Oh, really? Like what? Blue beard or something? Heh.”

Instead of focusing on their objective to protect the 『Divine Staff』, it seemed they found an interesting diversion in whatever they observed, causing the knights to furrow their brows even more.

However, at a time when any additional help was needed, sending them away wasn’t an option.

“I cannot say for certain, but… it’s size and shape are similar to a human. It’s very slow, so it will take some time to reach here, and if there’s anything particularly notable about its appearance…”

“Appearance?”

“It’s wrapped all over in bandages.”

The knights accurately described the monster’s appearance, causing the users to nod slightly.


“Bandages?”

“Ah! A mummy? Do mummies even exist?”

“I’ve heard stories of them appearing a few times in the northern ruins of the Old Continent.”

“Hmm, either way, let’s get ready! Whether it’s slow or fast, if it’s coming this way, we’ve got to fight.”

Until just moments ago, they were merely joking around, but they were players of the New Continent after all.

To move around the New Continent smoothly, one would need to be at least above level 250, and these bantering users certainly had the skills beyond that.

“Contact, 4000m!”

“Okay, now it’s clearly visible.”

“What shall we do? Let it come here or-”

“Obviously, we’re going out to beat it. Knights, please report back to Juma, will you?”

With all buffs applied, the ‘mummy’, creeping closer, was now barely 400m away from the 『Divine Staff』.

“Let’s go! Fight well, everyone!”

With a shout, seven users dashed forward.

“Now, let’s start with some magic…

『Pyro Spear』!”

One user quickly completed the casting.

Whoosh!

A flaming spear, taking shape in the air.

He didn’t wait and thrust his staff forward.

“Ah, hot!”

“Hey, learn to control your magic properly! Hehe.”

The flaming spear flew, narrowly missing the users rushing ahead as they dodged it playfully.

A pre-emptive strike with an explosive damage flaming spear was enough to seize the initiative.

‘The impact isn’t a joke either. If everyone rushes at that bandaged freak the moment I do…’

“It’s over.”

Woosh…

“Huh?”

“Uh?”

However, the anticipated sequence of events did not unfold.

The flaming spear, just before hitting the mummy, vanished into thin air.

“What? A dispel?”

“No, it didn’t look as if they used Dispel-”

“Move out!”

The distance between the seven users who had already charged and the mummy was now less than 50 meters. The mummy extended its hand towards the users.

『Begone.』

In that instant, from the fingertips of the mummy, a blazing spear of flame materialized.

“Pyro Spear!?”

“No, it’s not Dispel, but reversing magic-”

“Dodge it!”

Whoosh…

In a flash, the spear of flame struck one of the users at the front directly. Death in a single blow. As their comrade turned to ashes, the light in the eyes of the users dimmed.

“Crazy, kill it! Don’t give it a chance!”

“We’ve already contacted the back! Told them not to use magic, so don’t be scared and charge!”

The nature of the mummy was unknown. However, it had the property of not destroying magic but returning the inflicted magic just as it was.

True to the players of the New Continent, they quickly analyzed their enemy and geared up to fight back.

The regrettable thing was that their analysis was too simplistic.

『Foolish humans.』

Once again, a blazing spear of flame formed at the mummy’s fingertips.

“Ha, it’s not just once?”

“No, it’s not that it’s not once! There’s not just one! Scatter!”

Then there was one flame spear, then two, and then three.

“Use the barrier first!”

“Damn it, a mage-type monster!”

『Dr- Blast!”

“Abnormal Status! That thing, it uses paralysis magic too!?”

Along with the three thrown flame spears, another spell unfolded from the mummy’s fingertips.

Even though seven users, all above level 250, exerted their utmost effort, they couldn’t avoid it.

They tried using items or creating shields and barriers, but it was already too late as they were afflicted by the status ailment.

They couldn’t even attempt to neutralize the flame spears by swinging their weapons. Three more users died, and the rest were quickly dealt with by a few gestures from the mummy.

The time it took for these admittedly skilled seven users to die was less than two minutes.

A mage user watched this scene with dumbfounded eyes.

“I, I, I must run, must escape! It’s impossible, how can it be so powerful! Three? Not only casting three Pyro Spears simultaneously but also interspersing them with status ailment magic! Even if I go all out now, I might barely manage two casts!”

“You cannot leave! In the name of the knight’s honor! We must defend this place, 『Divine Staff』!”

The knight grabbed the mage user trying to flee, but the user was still determined.

“Someone has to report back to Juma City anyway!”

He shouted loudly at the knights, meaning he would go to Juma, so they should let him go.

The knights wore reluctant expressions but couldn’t hold back. After all, someone needed to convey this situation, and having someone who’s already lost their fighting spirit stay would do better heading to Juma since they might at least be of some use.

“Alright. Then… Please make sure to report to Juma City, and our knight order, that an unprecedentedly powerful mage-type monster has appeared.”

“That, that- Okay, I’ll make sure to do it! The knight order? Where should I go?”

“Sacred.”

“Virtue.”

“Just speak to the bishop of Juma. For the glory of our god Ahlo.”

He was from the capital defense knight orders of Fibiel, minis, and the paladins dispatched from the Ezwen Papacy. Leaving behind these three meant that these knight orders could be considered among those with the most accurate understanding of the current situation in the New Continent.

More important than the chaos of the Old Continent. Especially when the Old Continent was in turmoil, it was of utmost importance to stay cautious in the New Continent.

They had clearly understood this and set up an emergency contact system in anticipation, but they too were hoping it wouldn’t need to be activated.

“Sacred, Virtue, and the Ezwen Papacy. Got it… Please take care of things here!”

As soon as the mage user activated a crystal ball.

His form vanished along with a glow, and the knight order members looked at each other.

“Not too long ago, I remember you folks came in front of our capital.”

“Ha! But you probably didn’t see my face. I was in our country’s capital then.”

The knight of Virtue chuckled as he looked at the knight of Sacred. The knight of Sacred returned the smile.

“What does it matter? The trial bestowed upon us by God is what truly unites humanity”, he said, maintaining a serious demeanor despite the banter of the two.

(To be continued…)
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“Heh, paladins don’t like this sort of thing. Isn’t everything according to God’s will?”

“Even if they don’t like it, wouldn’t it be better if the companions in the afterlife got along well?”

Virtue and Sacred’s knights looked at each other and chuckled softly.

“Well, we should hope that this paladin leads us through the ordeal with honor.”

“And hope that the one who just left can safely report everything.”

『Holy Bless』, I’ll go ahead.”

Whoosh!

As the paladin’s sword shone with an aqua light, he dashed forward. Virtue and Sacred’s knights were quick to follow suit.

“Even if we go, we should land at least one blow to feel satisfied!”

“Agreed!”

“We shall not allow your approach to the 『Divine Staff』, you monster!”

Dieeee!

The knights were valiant.

“What did you just say!? Wrapped up in bandages”

“Ha, and to add, reversing magic – reversing magic.”

“Attack nullified? No! No! Ho, Holy Knight mentioned something exactly with the same appearance and traits! That’s Ghibrid!”

“Eh? Ghibrid – a Demon King’s Fragment? That Ghibrid?”

“This isn’t the time! Hurry, to the papacy! Quick!”

Ezwen Bishop’s room in Juma City’s governorate became noisy in an instant.


Fortunately, the mage user did not deviate elsewhere and was properly carrying out their mission.

“I can’t go! I’ve promised the knights there. We must inform Virtue and Sacred’s knights about this immediately!”

“Virtue and Sacred… Understood. I will enter the papacy myself. Hurry!”

“Understood!”

To the user who thought they were simply facing a mummy or a mage-type monster, this was a shocking event.

The creature they had just faced was Ghibrid, one of the Demon King’s Fragment, and it had awoken not too long ago!

They couldn’t help but put every ounce of their strength into each movement. The mage user from Juma City immediately alternated their travels between the capitals of Fibiel and Minis.

It took less than 20 minutes for the headquarters of Sacred and Virtue’s knights to be turned upside down.

“Hurry up, move! Pfsh! When is the rest of the knights coming?”

“We- we’ve already contacted everyone from the headquarters, but it’s too soon for anyone to have arrived-”

Lark, who arrived near 『Divine Staff』 using a crystal ball, hastily drew his sword.

Shiiing-!

However, even those who set out immediately after receiving the message from Virtue had just arrived; it was impossible for any knight group to have already been there.

“Always so slow! Can’t anyone do their job properly- Ah, there’s barely one team.”

Whoosh!

Just then, a light purple flash was seen in another area.

When teleportation is used simultaneously in overlapping areas, it can cause a snag effect leading to damage because of which, it’s common practice for each group to have their own unique spot at major crystal ball save points. This is especially since those in professions with lower health could potentially die from the snag effect damage.

“Start with searching the area! The only known appearance of Ghibrid is wrapped in bandages! Do not miss a single blade of grass or stone in the meticulous inspection-…… Sir Lark?”

A loud sigh escaped.

“Shin Nara, you’re late? I heard that user was stopping by Sacred first. What kept you?”


“I had my reasons. Now’s not the time to worry about that.”

The complex situation in Fibiel’s royal palace prevented Sacred from departing immediately, unlike Virtue. Nonetheless, disregarding all nobles and soothing their egos, Shin Nara managed to assemble the troops and arrive at the best possible time.

She knew what mattered most.

Of course, Lark, too, was well aware of this. Understanding the inner workings of an ‘enemy’ nation was his top priority in gathering intelligence. Thus, Lark’s nagging, “Why are you so late?”

could be taken as his own way of showing familiarity, though Shin Nara wasn’t particularly fond of his style.

“Haha, I know, I get it. Still, we should consider ourselves lucky to even have such playful exchanges.”

“Huh?”

“It’s safe”, Lark gestured towards the “Divine Staff” with his chin.

His sudden arrival without drawing his sword for battle was telling. Divine Staff was unharmed. It was still intact, gleaming with the luminosity of the giant spirit tree, untouched by harm which Shin Nara had feared.

But that wasn’t all.

“Whitehat!”

“Damn god!”

Rushing to the unscathed Divine Staff, Shin Nara noticed three men sitting beneath it and hurried over.

“How? I heard Ghibrid appeared around here…”

“That… That was Ghibrid?”

“Yes, probably. No, definitely. Master Kay of Fibiel’s Temple, now also a Cardinal of Ezwen, testified to the Demon King’s Fragment’s appearance and traits matching. So-”

Shin Nara held her tongue, thinking not everything was safe, but Whitehat, known as the knight, understood her implications.

Lark approached casually.

“Sir Visonte?”

“C-commander!”


“What? Our proud Virtue’s Sir Visonte has decapitated Ghibrid?”

“How could that be! Speak sense, hahaha!”

The scene vividly reflected the distinct characteristics of the Sacred and Virtue knight orders. The friendly response from the knights towards their pride, the surviving players, and the high-ranking players of their orders was evident.

Soon after, the Ezwen Paladins arrived amidst a dazzling light.

“Ghibrid! Where are you? Where?”

“Wait, Kijung-ssi! Getting excited won’t help!”

“If I have this shield, I thought I’d be… okay. Shin Nara? Lark? What are you doing here?”

Leading them was a 『Holy Knight』 holding a dark shield. The personnel from Byulcho promptly assembled upon Kijung’s call. They moved as one, possibly why Lark and Shin Nara, despite Kijung’s awkward appearance, couldn’t help but smile.

Especially Lark, his gaze lingered on Kijung’s shield.

“Ah, I salute the Exorcism Cardinal.”

“Are you alright? Any injuries?”

“Of course. Thanks to Lord Ahlo’s protection… I understand the conclave keeps you busy.”

The Paladins kneeled before Kijung, maintaining dignity even amidst chaos, earning a moment of admiration from the surrounding Paladins. Kijung helped him to his feet with a smile.

“I guess I should consider myself fortunate. After all, I am the Cardinal of the Exorcism Brush, and the one who first discovered Ghibrid. For this case, special permission has been granted by the Ezwen Papacy Diocese.”

Then he asked, “By the way… What happened exactly? To be honest, I didn’t expect all three of you to come out unscathed.”

This was a common question among the leaders of the three factions. It was well understood that it was inconceivable for merely three members of the Sacred Knight Order to have intercepted Ghibrid.

※ ※ ※

“So, you mean to say… it just retreated?”

“Yes, dame Shin. I-”

“Embarrassing! To think it charged at me. Maybe it was overwhelmed by our vigor. Haha!”

A member of the Sacred Knights laughed heartily, cutting off the testimony of the 148th Order members. Although the testimonies matched, those present found the situation unbelievable.

“Kijung-ssi, can such things happen?”

Shin Nara asked, but before Kijung could respond, members of the Byulcho team answered.

“It’s unbelievable. But then again, Kay has already become a 『Holy Knight』, so maybe it no longer matters”,

“Not at all, Hyein-ssi. If that was the case, there would be no reason for it to show up near 『Divine Staff』 in the first place”,

“Right. Bobae’s right, Hyein-ssi. Its target was clearly 『Divine Staff』. Yet, to turn back here…”

For those who had faced Ghibrid before, this was even more unbelievable. Lark, who had been silently listening, felt the same.

“Hey, Paladin. That… thing, the ‘Sacred Spirit’ or whatever that was attached to 『Divine Staff』, didn’t it manifest any special powers?”

“I always feel the love of the god Ahlo, but as for special forces manifesting… I didn’t feel anything like that. It didn’t do anything significant, captain.”

Listening to the Paladin and a member of the 148th, Lark quietly looked at Kijung. Kijung, too, caught Lark’s gaze but did not speak.

“Somethings off. Even if Ghibrid hadn’t regained its strength… Just left? It would have been stronger than Toon even in an unstable state. Killing 48 men and breaking 『Divine Staff』 should have been no issue at all for it. This isn’t like any monster to just leave. Especially not now, at the best of opportunities. It was unexpected for Ghibrid to appear where Bluebeard was anticipated… But how could it just leave? Where is Bluebeard?”

Though Kijung and Lark started from different points, they arrived at a similar conclusion: something was suspicious. This wasn’t just a simple incident.

“… When can we expect Rubini-nim?”

“She should arrive within 30 minutes.”

“Let’s wait for Rubini-nim, then. In the meantime, we’ll conduct a thorough search of the surroundings.”

Kijung raised his shield, catching Lark’s attention once again.

“Wow, becoming Holy Knight and picking out such a sleek shield? Doesn’t seem to have the Vatican’s scent though. Does the Vatican issue these?”

“You don’t need to know.”

“Ah, why be so cold? We’re comrades who’ve stood back to back against Bluebeard. You have no idea how I was caught by High Ha and tormented by the mystical creatures… Ah, they say being burnt at the stake hurts the worst. The Black Crane and the Red Goat were particularly cruel. They lit me on fire, over and over, treated me like their plaything.”

“You deserved it, that’s why you were punished!”

“Aye, you say such hurtful things. Do you have any idea how scared I was? By the time I was about to die from hours of torture… It felt somewhat refreshing, to be honest.”

Despite his jesting, the bitterness in Lark’s last statement was something Kijung could feel too. After being marked with every curse in the New Continent by the paleos, one could only wonder what kind of torture Lark had endured.

‘It’s his own doing. I really shouldn’t engage in conversation with this man.’

Though he found Lark amusing, Kijung knew better than to let his guard down around him. Lark could be helpful in a fight, but in other circumstances, he was dangerously unpredictable.

“Lark is… Well, what do I call it?”

Not an enemy, but not a friend either. Too clumsy for a comrade, too uncomfortable for a fellow warrior. What word could possibly describe such a relationship?

What word could define such a relationship? Moreover, if one were to speak of this shield, it would be none other than Toon’s Great Breastplate Shield, specially received from Leeha. Wasn’t it the secret weapon that Leeha, who had come from Ezwen to here, had never particularly feared even while facing dangers? Was it because Lark already sensed that there was some secret to Kijung, who remained silent, refusing to leave Kijung’s side?

(To be continued…)
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“It surely looks like a bone of some creature, but thinking about it from a logical perspective, it seems unlikely that the Vatican would engage in the barbaric act of making a shield out of bones… Between the Holy Knight and this sturdy monster bone shield, dark in color, to the point of being used as a shield…”

“Why not drop the concern? Would you like me to take a closer look at Lark’s sword for you?”

“Oh, by all means! If you wish, we can even trade! How about it, a short exchange?”

Lark willingly drew his sword from its scabbard and offered it to Kijung.

Unwittingly, Kijung pulled the shield closer to his body and stepped back. This reaction was precisely why Kijung felt uneasy around him.

An exchange? Is his sword even exchangeable?

‘First of all, is that really the sword? There has to be some trust! Moreover, how can someone be so sharply intuitive! Is it a keen instinct or what?’

While Kijung was contemplating whether to just stash the shield in his bag, Lark took another step towards him when suddenly,

“Kijung! Up ahead!”

“Whats?!”

Kijung’s body froze, and immediately, Shin Nara drew her sword.

“Do you see it, Bobae?”

“Yes, I see it. It’s coming, Ghibrid!”

Once again, a Demon King’s Fragment revealed itself.

“Rash attacks are absolutely forbidden! It has the ability to negate all attacks. No, rather than negating…”

“It absorbs them. It’d be more accurate to say it absorbs them.”

“Hehe, fitting, isn’t it? Even the toxic damage from successful attacks didn’t affect it.”

There had been only one group that had engaged in an official battle with Ghibrid. And that one group was considered superior to any other in Middle Earth.

“We must first understand what kind of attack works on it. Before we unravel that mystery, all we need to do is block its approach!”


“Damn! Easier said than done.”

“How will you block its approach?”

Even Lark appeared visibly tense. Shin Nara, ready to launch herself at Ghibrid, was equally flustered.

To think, even with Sacred, Virtue, the Star Chasers, and even the Ezwen Paladins gathered, they shouldn’t attack! It was Kijung who calmed his breath amidst them.

“Not all skills are ineffective against it. There’s at least one thing that definitely works.”

“Kijung! You absolutely can’t.

‘That skill’ is off-limits.”

“Ah, I know, Bobae. I also have no intention to use ‘that skill’.”

Bobae jumped at Kijung’s hint towards Sacrifice, but Kijung merely smiled.

“Then what?”

“The most primitive but sure way – ‘Pushing’.”

“…You’re not suggesting using your body to push it, are you, Kay?”

Hyein’s eyes widened upon seeing Kijung holding up the shield, and Kijung nodded in response.

“It can absorb attacks, but it can’t absorb me. That’ll be the most certain. Those with ‘Fire Attribute Close Combat Skills’, please prepare just that. If its bandages attempt to coil around me, just remove those bandages. When I ‘body slam’ it away…”

Kijung gripped his shield, his eyes shining. Facing a new monster means trial and error is inevitable.

“Until a successful hit is confirmed, ‘grinding’ is the natural course.”

“All Paladins, cast different holy magics. Remember what inflicts damage and which attack feels most effective. Once we confirm at least one thing, then, let’s launch a full attack.”

“Wow, how noble. But still, still, what if? If even the holy attacks of the Paladins present here don’t work, what then?”

“It will work.”

“Formulating a hypothesis and experimenting is good, but at this point, it might be better to utilize already proven effects.”


“What do you mean?”

Lark paused his clapping and then showed his own sword. The proven effect, meaning, ‘Fire attribute works.’

He didn’t elaborate further, but Kijung understood Lark’s intention.

Kijung: Planning to use that ‘Red-Holy’ skill?

Lark: I hoped you wouldn’t remember that name… Is it too much to underestimate the Holy Knight?

Kijung: But long-range might not work. The fire attribute worked at close range to burn the bandages, but whether it deals damage to the actual body…

Lark: That’s the point! Just trust this once. Mine doesn’t categorize between close and long-range. You know what I mean? The skill that even Bluebeard couldn’t avoid! If it’s a fire attribute skill utilizing the solar energy concentrated in Lark’s sword?

Kijung was one of the people who had witnessed the terror of that skill up close. There was no reason to refuse.

“Alright. As soon as the Paladin’s tests are over… I’ll count on you to use it”, Kijung said, nodding at Lark as Bobae glared at him.

“What’s the deal? Trying to act all tough?”

“Well… given the situation, there isn’t much to say.”

Lark responded to Bobae’s sharp remarks with a nonchalant demeanor, which only irritated Bobae more. However, since they were on the same team, there wasn’t much reason for bickering.

“Kay, are you sure this will be fine?”

“It will be. This time… probably. Because we have this.”

With a metallic sound, Kijung sheathed his sword.

Sheathing his sword before a battle?

What did “we have this” mean?

When everyone looked somewhat startled, Kijung finally burst into action. He wasn’t one to keep the everyone waiting. Quietly, he called out the name of a skill.

“『Dinosaurification Transformation』.”

“What?!”


“What, what’s this?”

“Is that a black ball-?”

From Toon’s Great Breastplate Shield, a dark energy began to spread, enveloping Kijung’s body.

It looked like a pitch-black ball, rolling forward with no way to see inside from the outside, though this illusion did not last long.

Crack, crackle-

As the ball began to crack, hane admired it.

“No, it’s not a ball! An egg… An egg, perhaps?”

It was indeed an egg.

A dark egg.

As the wrapped cracks ran across the egg, becoming denser, the egg finally shattered. The figure that emerged wasn’t Kijung with his shield.

From the helmet to the armor and the plate boots, everything was united into a dull colored armor that didn’t even reflect sunlight.

And the material of that armor was definitely peculiar. A transformation??

“Beastification? No, it’s more than beastification…”

“Full-body… suit? The shield?”

This allowed the onlookers to know. Because the armor was made of an unusual material.

The very shield Kijung had been holding, now invisible, had undoubtedly transformed into a complete suit of armor.

“Heh, thought it was no ordinary shield- But, if it’s like this, it’s not even a shield! Plus, what’s this! Isn’t that person a high-ranking Templar? A Holy Knight acting like this! Should rather- switch to a Dark Knight! It fits better as a Dark Knight, change it!”

Lark grumbled, unaware.

Hearing this, Kijung shouted back as he ran forward.

『I am a Holy Knight! With this!』 The only thing emitting a white halo from Kijung’s all-dark figure, 『The Nameless Paladin’s Sword』, was finally drawn from its sheath.

His movements left a trail of black energy behind him, and his sword glowed faintly.

Facing Ghibrid, the Holy Knight covered in the aura of the 『Dinosaur』 charged forward.

“Seriously, amazing, stab, really freaking cool, seriously!”

He couldn’t perceive the trail of black energy his movements left behind. However, Kijung was acutely aware of his actions, which were notably different than usual.

“With this crazy sprint, an increase in movement and attack speed, and even an incredible increase in stamina! It’s total chaos!”

Shwoooo…

A Pyro Sphere materialized in front of Ghibrid.

“That, that! It’s one of the magics absorbed earlier!”

“Hmm, using magic absorbed on the same day?”

“Indeed, just by looking at that, you can tell that ‘long-distance magic’ with a fire attribute won’t work.”

“That’s not the problem, it’s powerful! That thing is strong!”

A Pyro Sphere was shot towards Kijung, who had transformed into a dinosaur form. However, Kijung did not change his direction.

“Dodge it, Kijung-”

Ka-aaa…!

Before Bobae’s cry could finish, Kijung collided with the Pyro Sphere. As the explosion burst forth and the flames majestically combusted, it signified nothing but the dissipation of energy.

“My sword seemed so easy to you, Ghibrid!”

The tip of the sword precisely neutralized the Pyro Sphere, and the residual energy was merely ticklish to Kijung in his 『Dinosaur Form』.

Kijung, shouldering his sword, took a battle stance. Drawing his sword was merely a precaution against any unforeseeable attacks.

Having previously managed to pierce Ghibrid’s body with his sword, Kijung knew well that simple attacks would not be effective. Hence, what he chose was literally a ‘body tackle’, the pure form of tackle itself.

“Haahaaaap-!”

Boom—–!

“Good! Nice!”

With a sound as satisfying as striking hollow steel, Ghibrid’s body was pushed back by a hundred or so.

“It worked!”

“Psych, hehe~ The last moment’s dash wasn’t even visible to the eye.”

“It’s truly become a monster now.”

Even Biyemi and Jin Gonggong, members of the same corps, couldn’t hide their shock at the transformation. Let alone Lark, who was merely bewildered by the sight.

“… Is everyone from the Leeha family like this? Does that household have the blood of monsters?”

“Khm, it’ll take some time to adapt, won’t it?”

“Shin Nara-ssi, you’ve adapted already?”

At that, Shin Nara gave a suppressed laugh at Lark’s quip. Ghibrid attempted another spell, but Kijung thwarted it and charged again.

Ghibrid’s physical attacks were simply swatted away with a swing of the arm, and Kijung once more charged in for another tackle.

Watching Kijung create distance once again, Shin Nara clenched her fist tightly.

“Oh~ No. I haven’t adapted to Mr. Ha yet. Actually, I thought ‘you’ might have managed it faster.”

“Eh? Huh? Leeha? No, I was talking about Master Kay. What are you suddenly talking about?”

“Huh?”

And then Lark and Shin Nara exchanged glances. Lark smiled intriguingly, causing Shin Nara’s face to rapidly blush.

“What are you two doing?! Focus on Kijung-ssi!”

Bobae shouted, prompting Shin Nara to hurriedly turn her head towards Kijung. In the meantime, Kijung had neutralized another one of Ghibrid’s spells.

“Another Pyro Sphere…… so it’s like that.”

“No, it might not necessarily be so. There were traces of status anomalies in the last words of those who were tasked in Juma City.”

While Hyein was converting hypothesis to verification, a member from the Sacred Knights, number 480, offered advice.

“Hmm, status anomalies.”

“Hehe, well, it is a Demon King’s Fragment after all. Must be a passive ability like ‘Fear.'”

“That will be confirmed once Kay arrives. Paladins, are you ready?”

“Ready. Now, it’s our turn!”

Light gathered in the swords of the Paladins. Simply brandishing their swords was not the extent of their capabilities. Paladins could also easily execute simple forms of holy magic.

『Holy Light』!”

『Turn Undead』!”

『God’s Hammer』!”

『Holy Chain Strike』!”

The first to be used were the long-distance magics!

Though there were some overlapping spells, the number of holy magics cast by the Paladins easily surpassed twenty. Kijung felt the holy energy coming from behind him. Ghibrid saw it too. His bandages were wrapped more tightly than before, making it impossible to tell where he was looking, but he certainly raised his head.

“Trying to absorb this! Hah!”

(To be continued.)
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Kijung attacked Ghibrid with all his might. His arm swung at a formidable speed, and the dark energy that lingered at its end was nothing short of lethal. However, Kijung, whose physical capabilities had been greatly enhanced through “Dinosaur Transformation”, was not intimidated. He ducked under his attacks, punched away the incoming magic spells with an open palm! With a loud crash, the moment his arm wavered and broke free, he head-butted Ghibrid’s chest and rolled to the side!

『Hit-』

Ghibrid couldn’t even assume a proper stance. Kijung had already dodged all the incoming magic spells. All that was left was for the magic to hit Ghibrid directly! But, that did not happen.

『-Ah……….』

Because all the incoming magic spells were annihilated.

“Uh, it disappeared?”

“Dispel? No, a dispel? And so quickly?”…

It was quite an odd scene. It was only natural for Hyein to be flustered.

“Didn’t you say it absorbs, sage?”

“Ah, no, last time- last time it surely did. It neither dodged nor blocked the attacks. But now…”

It blocked them. It neutralized the incoming attacks mid-air. The holy light cascaded down, and the white hammer lost its light.

Only some yellow gold dust fluttered towards Ghibrid’s flesh but was also annihilated before reaching him.

“Changing tactics? Teehee, not absorbing anymore…”

“No, maybe it can’t absorb. After all, they are of holy attributes.”

Maybe it didn’t absorb because the skills were inflicting damage of opposite nature.

『We can’t relax; if we want to push back Ghibrid, we must deal a real blow! Lark!』

Kijung dodged Ghibrid’s attacks, blocked them, and shouted. That moment, Ghibrid’s bandage-wrapped hand struck Kijung’s chest.

“Kijung!”

Whoosh!


Kijung’s body was propelled back, rolling several times. Bobae quickly prepared to approach with a potion, but Kijung stood up right away and dashed forward again.

Kijung quickly toggled his character window, checking his condition.

『No damage! Don’t worry!』 “As expected!”

“Good job!”

Tale even took a fighting pose, cheering on Kijung. However, Kijung himself was the most bewildered.

‘I don’t bleed at all. What is this? Is Ghibrid that weak? No, this skill does significantly increase the ‘complete defense chance’… But that wasn’t a ‘complete defense’ just now, so why didn’t it take any damage?’

Currently, he was as if he had Toon’s Great Breastplate Shield wrapped around his whole body. Since the 『Complete Defense Chance』 attached to the Bone Shield applied to his whole body defense, it would turn the damage from physical attacks to zero with a certain probability. But what about that attack?

Nonetheless, not taking any damage at all?

“Looks like I won’t need to help for him to win, but should I still use my skill-”

『That level of ease isn’t there, hurry!』 “Okay, okay, got it… then, 『Red-Sun』.”

Whoosh!

Red energy gathered at the tip of Lark’s sword. It wouldn’t take much time.

『If Lark’s attack is successful, everyone, be ready to rush in! We will finish Ghibrid here and now!』 Kijung bravely exclaimed.

Avoiding Ghibrid’s physical attack, dismantling the incoming Pyrosphere, and again, breaking down the Paladins’ holy magic with tackles and defensive stances, his actions were heroic.

“Awesome~”

“Kijung is really something today. Even I would struggle to follow those movements.”

“It’s terrifying that attacks might be nullified. Even Ghibrid’s attack ended in nullification.”

“I hope it doesn’t nullify magic too. If it ignored something like 『Reverse Gravity』… I can’t see anyone defeating him.”

As Lark was casting his skill, the members of Byulcho and Shin Nara watched in admiration.

To think he’d confront the “Demon King’s Fragment” 1-on-1 and even attempt to decipher its patterns, will the name Master Kay finally echo throughout Middle Earth!


“Ready- Set!”

『Understood! I’ll disrupt his stance, so use it on my signal!』

Kijung glanced back. Lark’s blade was as red-hot as iron thrown into a furnace.

“If it hits, there’s no surviving it. Even Full Power Bluebeard struggled! If it’s Ghibrid with his power not fully returned- we can definitely catch him! I just have to do it right!”

That’s when Ghibrid’s movements suddenly sped up.

『Hmm, guess he doesn’t know fear?』

Seeing Ghibrid’s movements, which were clearly faster than before, Kijung was momentarily flustered but not to the point where he couldn’t react.

The issue was timing the coordination with Lark.

“Master Kay! If you can’t dodge properly, you’ll die!”

『Don’t worry about me! I’ll manage, use it 5 seconds from now!』 “Enduring this will be the death of me, this skill!” 『4 seconds! 3 seconds!』

Ghibrid stretched out both hands, but Kijung knocked them away with each fist. Ghibrid, somewhat desperate, rushed towards Kijung. But a tanker isn’t called a tanker for nothing.

Kijung slipped his leg between Ghibrid’s legs and pushed his chest with his shoulder. That alone was enough to throw off Ghibrid’s balance.

“That’s it! He’s bound to stagger due to the structure! Kijung shouted.

『He’ll be sent flying to my left, 1 second!』

Boom———!

The powerful impact sounded then. Ghibrid momentarily stopped then redirected that force towards Kijung.

“What, what? You said left from your perspective!”

Kijung was the one sent to the left.

『Ah!』

“Damn! The skill was already.”


Believing Kijung’s words, Lark who had tilted his sword to the left, had to hastily raise his wrist to the sky. Something above Lark’s head sparked and then disappeared. Thus, red-Line vanished vainly.

“Kijung!”

“Kay!”

“Protect the Cardinal!”

Byulcho and the Paladins rushed forward. However, there was no further threat to Kijung.

“Ghibrid is disappearing!”

“After driving him away, don’t follow! It’s dangerous!”

Ghibrid was swiftly moving away. Bao still ran towards Kijung, who hadn’t gotten up yet.

“Kijung! Are you okay? Your health? Drink a potion first!”

Whoosh…

The skill “Dinosaur Transformation” was released, and soon, Kijung held the sinister-looking Bone Shield in his hand again. His body didn’t transform into light.

However, Kijung’s expression seemed somewhat vacant.

“Kijung-ssi! Snap out of it! Paladins, please remove the status ailments! Start with lifting the status ailments! Kijung-ssi has been caught in something-”

“No, no, it’s okay, Bobae.”

Bobae thought Kijung had been affected by some skill because he had been staring blankly for a while, but that wasn’t the case.

Kijung got up from his position with Bobae’s support.

“Kay! Are you alright?”

“Ghibrid has gone back!”

“It was a regrettable battle. If only one of us could have joined the fight.”

Maybe we could have really captured Ghibrid. If someone had risked their life. Although Tale’s voice held bitterness, Kijung himself still had a blank expression on his face.

“But compared to Bluebeard, it’s much easier, isn’t it?”

“It’s probably because he hasn’t fully regained his strength yet.”

“Kikiki, think of it the other way. Even without regaining any strength, he neutralized all of our perfect attacks and played around with our guild leader, who’s almost as good as ‘a trickster’.”

All evaluations were indeed true. The members of the Sacred Knights, the Virtue Knights, and the Ezwen Paladins all agreed with this assessment.

“Anyway… it’s clear that he’ll be a continuous threat to the Divine Staff. Appearing twice just today.”

Lark had missed his chance with a Red-Sun skill failure, but he considered this ordeal somewhat lucky.

If hit, without being sure of death, Ghibrid leaving was “the most definite and safest defense success”. It was around then Kijung’s face began to regain its vitality.

“That’s right. Therefore… Cardinal Romero must become the Pope. If the Divine Staff takes a hit, Ghibrid will become stronger and then we will-”

The end was left unsaid, but everyone understood what was left unspoken. How much of Ghibrid’s power is currently available?

Even in a generous estimate, not even 30%. Facing such a being, what would happen if he were given 100% of his power?

The main members of the Tebiel, minis, and Ezwen Knights were painfully made aware of this.

“First, I’ll return to the capital and convince the nobles in the palace powerfully. We must, of course, re-deploy the knights here, and ensure Cardinal Romero receives strong support during the forthcoming conclave. All members of the Sacred Knights will put forth our best effort.”

Shin Nara spoke in a somewhat stiff tone to Kijung. Kijung nodded in response, meeting her eyes.

“We also have no choice but to step up. The king has been so stubborn, refusing to help… Virtue will move in its own way. We’ll send someone for undercover work in Ezwen.”

Lark said to Kijung as if he understood everything. He had already been in touch with Minis’s power brokers to support Cardinal Romero’s election but promised to act more aggressively.

“Undercover work?”

“The conclave is chosen by the cardinals, isn’t it? Better to approach the cardinals who have voting rights than for us to keep showing up. I’ve heard rumors there’s a skilled individual for such situations, but I wonder if we can pull it off. We’ll do our best to send them.”

Lark winked, causing Kijung to feel somewhat reassured. If he talks this confidently, he must truly be a powerful ally.

“Really, you’re amazing. It’s incredibly annoying, but trusty at the same time.”

Kijung couldn’t help but think. Through their conversation, beams of light flickered in various places.

The arriving forces were members of the Tebiel and Minis knight orders. Although not as many as before, given the urgency of the situation, these groups had pushed to send whatever forces they could.

“Let’s leave protection to them for now… Let’s move, everyone.”

“What are you saying, why are you acting all high and mighty? It was all thanks to Kijung-ssi, right?”

“Haha, but, do I really earn that much dislike, Bobae-ssi?”

“It’s not just earning dislike- Ugh, never mind. The more I talk about it, the more infuriated I get.”

Bobae turned her back sharply away from Lark. Nonetheless, Lark just smiled.

“Then, Shin Nara-ssi, Lark-ssi. I’ll leave it to you. For Cardinal Romero.”

“Don’t worry. Bringing Ghibrid invasion incident to the palace will be enough to persuade them in the direction we want.”

“Same here. Let’s toast in ten days.”

Kijung shook hands with Shin Nara and Lark, signaling the departure of the Sacred and Virtue knights back to their home countries.

“So, Kijung-ssi, you’re going back to Ezwen?”

“Yes. As usual, the Byulcho members will be near Juma City-”

“Ah, ah, don’t worry. Hyun hyung is already taking care of everything.”

“Teleportation always leaves a trace. If Kaztor, that dark elf, comes near the continent, it might be near Juma City by the coast. We’ll thoroughly search that area, so don’t worry, Kay.”

Hearing Hyun’s words, Kijung nodded.

Not just because of what Hyun had said, but the seriousness of the Kaztor situation was felt by all Ezwen affiliated users. Considering what event L4480 might lead to, tracing his steps was a critical task.

(To be continued…)
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“Then we’ll be off!”

“Yes. Paladins, all return to Azwen! Do not forget the might of Ghibrid we witnessed today, and please inform the surrounding clergy.”

Yes sir!

The Paladins collectively placed their swords to their chests, responding to Kijung’s shout. After assining the newly added knight orders to patrol and emergency contact systems, the Byulcho members and Paladins started teleporting.

Kijung also took out a crystal ball. Then he looked back. At the place where they had fought Ghibrid just moments before, he whispered a silent thought.

Kijung: If only there was some warning… Leeha: Kekeke, hey, if I had told you, would it have been such a thrilling scene? It’s because I acted desperately that even Nara-ssi and Lark were completely fooled.

Kijung: Hyung… really, to call that a conversation-

The subject of the whisper was Leeha.

Leeha: But you were pretty good, weren’t you?

Kijung: What was?

Leeha: Even without using magic, to not falter in a physical battle against Blaugrunn who transformed into Ghibrid!

Hmm, hmm, not bad, not bad.

Kijung, while listening to Leeha’s silent conversation, couldn’t help but sigh deeply atleast five times.

Why was Ghibrid different than usual? The answer was simple.

Because it wasn’t Ghibrid. It was Blaugrunn using polymorph.

Only Hyein, with his sharp senses and analytical skills, noticed that ‘Ghibrid was different from last time’, but there was too little data to confirm anything, so it was hard to blame anyone.

“Pffft! Kijung, that dumbfounded face of his!”

“Ugh… Was it really that funny, Leeha? I thought I was going to suffocate from frustration.”

“What’s there to be frustrated about? Keke, funny. You neutralized all incoming magic anyway. Just have to charade with that guy and that’s it.”


Blaugrunn, hidden by transparent magic, grumbled at Leeha who hidden by camouflage.

Although they couldn’t see each other, their voices were audible, creating a scene that might have startled anyone passing by to think they’d heard ghosts.

“Charade- I don’t know what that means but! Thanks to Toon’s item and maybe because becoming a Holy Knight made me stronger, truly, fighting that human transformed into a 『Dinosaur』 wasn’t ordinary! And in the middle of that, I could only use ‘Pyro Sphere’ as a magic attack, it was so frustrating.”

Returning to Ezwen, Kijung thought, ‘I risked my life in a fight against a dragon that Leeha hyung brought around… That too, a dragon that didn’t use magic properly or attack properly… Did I just barely match with that kind of thing?’

But that was an underestimation of himself.

Blaugrunn, despite being at a significant handicap, admitted that facing Kijung was challenging.

“Well, when those holy skills started flying towards me, I was startled. But, you saw it, right? How I wrapped up nearly twenty of them in an instant and counterattacked?”

Using camouflage, making too much noise with Multi-Warhead Shot was impossible.

Thus, with fast hand movements and precise targeting alone, Leeha disintegrated all coming magic in mid-air.

Before executing the plan to transform Blaugrunn into Ghibrid, visiting Juma City to extensively adapt some of the agility attributes to ‘hand and eye coordination’ proved to be worthwhile.

“But Turn Undead didn’t disappear, hitting me instead, right? If I hadn’t used Dispel then, that Paladin might have realized I was a dragon.”

“Ah, right… Indeed. Moreover, that jerk Lark was really about to use 『Red-Sun』-”When Kijung was about to tackle Blaugrunn – which he had mistaken for Ghibrid – and engage in a fierce melee, something unexpected happened. Kijung’s body was suddenly flung to the left due to a single reason: he had been struck on his right side by a curve shot from Leeha. The moment the bullet hit, a notification popped up in front of Kijung.

『User ‘Leeha’ has attacked you. A hostile relationship has been formed.』

『Attacking a hostile user will not increase your Chaotic Index.』 This kind of alert didn’t appear when Blaugrunn attacked. The fact that Leeha had once again recalibrated his “relationship” with Blaugrunn was precisely for this reason! However, due to the possibility of being recognized as Leeha’s subordinate when using “Soul Mates”, “Jellypong”, or other “Mystical creatures”, Leeha had no other choice but to rely solely on the power of a polymorphed Blaugrunn.

“It wasn’t easy. I really wanted to pulverize them all by myself, but I had to coordinate with Blaugrunn’s actions while transformed into Ghibrid, and I had to ensure not to kill users.”

For users, death meant merely some penalties, and they would be able to log back in. However, high-value assets like the Knights of NPCs would take considerable time to replace once killed. Knowing this, Leeha had only killed other users and spared three of the NPCs when Ghibrid-Blaugrunn first appeared near the “Divine Staff.”

“I feel somewhat guilty about hitting Kijung. It wasn’t my intention to actually shoot.”

But it was already too late to explain and try to nullify Lark’s skill.

Lark’s “Red-Sun” wasn’t an ordinary skill, after all. If it hit Blaugrunn transformed into Ghibrid, it could cause significant damage. Thus, Leeha had to be prepared, hoping fervently that Kijung would survive!

But instead of perishing, Kijung effortlessly stood up after being knocked down, leading Leeha to recognize two things: the “Dinosaur Transformation” skill from Toon’s Shield had perfectly allowed Kijung to deflect the bullet by achieving the optimal ‘tanking angle’. Even Leeha had to marvel at Kijung’s artful skill, delaying his explanation to Kijung for a moment.


Receiving an attack notification from Leeha without any prior warning, it was natural for Kijung to be momentarily dazed and confused.

“So, what do we do now?”

“We’ve served up three things on a platter: the emergence of Ghibrid, the danger to the Divine Staff, and that this danger is ‘real and urgent’… Now, we just have to watch the capabilities of the three individuals who have gathered here.”

“Watch their capabilities?”

“It’s like setting up the board for Cardinal Romero to ascend as Pope. Heh. I wonder what they’ll do.”

“Just hearing you laugh, I can almost picture the expression you’re making.”

With that, Leeha deactivated his camouflage and stood up.

“Alright then. Where to next?”

“Mm, since I made a promise, let’s head to the Eastern New Continent.”

“A promise?”

“I wonder if Blaugrunn-ssi likes dogs. Let’s go! I’ll tell you on the way!”

Despite his reluctance, Blaugrunn couldn’t resist Leeha’s urging and begrudgingly nodded. ※ A boundless forest, cliffs seemingly ripped out by a giant’s hands. In a place where one wouldn’t expect any sign of life, two humans appeared. One was a sniper, Leeha. The other was…

“Indeed. Everywhere seems completely blocked off. At least to the eye, there’s no way through”, remarked Blaugrunn in awe.

“Hm, you can sense that?”

“Of course. The more skilled the individual, the better they feel it. Among human mages, that Sage guy was probably a bit frustrated.”

Leeha and Blaugrunn found themselves in front of “Elizabeth and Brown’s House” once again. Though unable to perform spatial teleportation, Leeha’s use of Blaugrunn’s dragon form made arriving here all too easy.

“Where are we going?”

“The Dark Forest. Ever heard of it, Blaugrunn-ssi?”

“No-, wait, really! The one with the mystical creatures of dusk you mentioned? Where the Shade creatures are?!”

“Ah, quick on the uptake. Right. I’ve got a promise with those guys.”


Leeha pulled out an item that resembled a ‘Covert Camera’ he had received from Browless.

“What’s that?”

“I promised to show them the recording of Toon’s death.”

“What? That kind of promise – I mean, to make such a promise must mean something significant…”

“There were risks involved. But… had no choice. Well, if it’s a success, then that’s all that matters, isn’t it?”

Leeha then reassuringly patted the worried Blaugrunn on the back. When leaving the Dark Forest, Leeha had come to an understanding with the mid-tier spirit entities, the Shades. He had even received a quest from them. The risk was real, and the penalty for failure would have been substantial. Yet, Leeha thought he had secured a rather ‘interesting’ condition for himself.

“So, are we making a contract with the Shade now?”

“Contract- No. Heh, not a contract but… Wait, contract?”

“Why?”

Suddenly, as if struck by an absurd thought, Leeha hit his forehead in realization.

“Such a fool!” 『 Achievement: Supreme Mastery – Emotional Dominion 』

Reward: 75 Stat Points

One-time Skill: Spirit Contract

Resistance to 『Abnormal Status: Fear』 increased by 100% (This is an unlisted achievement.)

Leeha quickly opened the skill window.

Spirit Contract (Fear) Description: The one inheriting Toon’s power can contract with the terror spirit. The grade of the spirit is determined by the affinity to the spirit. Effect: Summoning the terror spirit Mana: 1

“Argh! How could I forget about this!? I have a skill that allows me to contract with the terror spirit! Oh, what a fool… Ah, well, I couldn’t have used it right away anyway. If I tried pretending to be Ghibrid, Blaugrunn-ssi would have to do it, and my name would appear if I used it.”

In this blend of self-reproach and rationalization, Leeha showcased his unique genius. Yet, it was Blaugrunn who looked as if he had been struck by a hammer.

“The terror spirit… Really, the terror spirit?”

“Why, what’s the matter?”

“Those beings, or should I say, the ‘mind’ entities like the terror spirit, operate on a completely different system from the elemental spirits! I’ve only heard about them a few times even from the Lord! Leeha-niiiiim!”

Blaugrunn hurriedly approached, clasping his hands tightly and looking up at Leeha with shimmering eyes. Seeing those twinkling eyes, Leeha felt a wave of alarm.

“Why are you acting like this?”

“Now! You’re going to use it now, right? That thing! You’re going to show it to me now, right? Yes? Please?”

Leeha nodded without much hesitation.

“Does the terror spirit have any connection to the dusk mystical creatures?”

“I’m not sure. But surely… there must be some familiarity.”

Considering their destination was the Dark Forest, if it were possible to negotiate with the dusk mystical creatures using the terror spirit!

“It’s like hitting two birds with one stone!”

With Black Bass slung over his shoulder and ensuring there were no obstacles nearby, Leeha finally used the skill.

『Spirit Contract』

The mana cost was merely 1, so it didn’t feel out of the ordinary. However, the void that opened in Leeha’s chest was visible enough for Blaugrunn to see.

“What in the world!? What is this?”

“Amazing! Is this the embodiment of the spirit realm?”

“What are you talking about?”

“Just like the water spirit adopts the ocean as the embodiment of the spirit realm, and the fire spirit adopts the campfire, the terror spirit is adopting ‘Leeha’s heart’ as its embodiment!”

“That sounds unsettling.”

Despite the boy’s enthusiastic explanation, Leeha could only frown, uncomfortable with the idea of his fears being visualized like an image.

“Ah, something is popping out!”

“Ssst! I’m the terror spirit! Who are you? Who might you be?”

Long arms popped out of Leeha’s chest.

One arm, then another. One leg, then another. Finally, something that looked like a torso emerged with a swoosh! The black hole that seemed to have opened Leeha’s chest disappeared.

“Sssk! Could it be a dragon? Is the dragon calling me?”

Looking somewhat human-like rather than in the form of a translucent and small animal, it was clearly of a higher caliber, but Leeha was simply perplexed.

“It’s human, but not quite.”

The thin, long arms and legs were so bizarre. However, the even stranger thing was that the arms and legs were attached to the body.

“No, can it even be called a body? Or should I say a face.”

The giant oval-shaped body with a face had eyes, a nose, and a mouth like a human. There were clearly two eyes, a nose below them, a chin, and a mouth, but they were so huge in proportion to the body, and the ratios of the eyes to the nose or the nose to the mouth were not like humans.

Resembling a human to some extent but not human. Compared to the “humanization” of other higher beings Leeha had seen so far, it was absurdly displeasing.

“Uncanny! You are uncanny!”

“As expected, you know me well as a dragon. Was it you who called me?”

The terror spirit called the Uncanny looked at Blaugrunn, nodding its head – whether it was the head or the body, Leeha couldn’t tell – but now whether it was the body or the face didn’t matter.

Since there was now a delicate situation where the valuable achievement of capturing and gaining the extra option skill from Toon might be taken away by Blaugrunn.

“Wait a moment! It was me who called you! Why did you come out of my chest only to say that?”

“Hmm? Is it a mere human who called me?”

The Uncanny stared straight at Leeha. As their eyes met, Leeha felt their legs tremble faintly, but then straightened up immediately, tensing their muscles.

“Yes, I called you. I am the one who killed Toon, known as a dinosaur, and became the person who can control the terror that is Terror, the strongest fear.”

“… Indeed. Hence, I suppose that means I can look you in the eye.”

Uncanny once again nodded its head – whether it was acknowledging or not, it was still hard to tell.

The tone seemed to be indicating acknowledgement, but whether this was something remarkable or not… It was difficult for Leeha to understand, even to determine if this skill was good or not from the get-go.

A long-armed, frog-like terror spirit, Uncanny, was summoned in front of Leeha in this manner.

Blaugrunn: Don’t be scared, Ha Leeha! This creature was summoned as a contractee for you!

Leeha: Ah, I know! I’m not scared! It’s just… somehow unsettling, that’s all!

Leeha boldly inflated her chest, spurred on by Blaugrunn’s cheers.

“By killing the Fear Toon-nim and succeeding his dignity and achievements, I have met the conditions to contract with the terror spirit. Therefore, I intend to proceed with the contract with you who have been summoned.”

Feeling annoyed and somewhat distorted, but ultimately a spirit. Leeha decided to view the grotesque figure in front of her as a child or even in a gelatinous form.

“Looks way more unsettling than I thought.”

Staring at Leeha until she nearly swallowed her saliva, Uncanny once again cleared its throat, mustered its poise, and formally greeted Leeha.

“You don’t seem like a spirit sage, but your spirit affinity is remarkable. Allow me to formally greet you. My name is Uncanny. I am a top-gra terror spirit that makes everything familiar into something dreadful. By inheriting the contract you had with the Fear Toon-nim, I, too, willingly accept the contract.”

“Top-grade? You?”

Given that ridiculous and uncomfortable appearance?

Leeha barely managed to hold back his remarks. Top-grade spirit!

He had at best thought of it as intermediate. Having once contracted with the intermediate fire spirit Salamander, which had taken the form of a burning salamander, he had imagined it to look exactly like that.

“Even the intermediate fire Ignis seemed like a mere child, but it turned out to be a full-fledged adult. Not to mention the top-grade beings that Leeha had met in the Forest of the World Tree, the top spirits of Wind, earth, and Fire manipulated by Prea exhibited perfect human forms, displaying the beauty and grandeur of their attributes.”

“Indeed. As I mentioned just now, I make everything familiar terrifying. How do I appear to you?”

“What do you mean?”

“Oh, I see! How does he appear to you, Ha Leeha? He appears in the form of a headless dragon, you know! Based on the number of wings and the color of the scales, you might think it looks like the moment of Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’s death!”

“Huh? What?”

Startled, Leeha glanced at Blaugrunn. The reason he instantly recognized the unknown terror spirit was that it made everything familiar terrifying.

The most familiar thing to Blaugrunn was the race of ‘dragon’ itself.

Among those ‘dragons’, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh was the one that Blaugrunn feared the most, and Uncanny was deliberately showing him in the form of the most familiar yet terrifying figure to Blaugrunn.

“Um… It… It looks like some distorted human.”

“Is that so? Do you recognize that human? You must be clear who that is.”

“What? Who is it? How can that human… Wait a minute.”

At that moment, Leeha saw. The grotesquely elongated arms and legs weren’t particularly eye-catching. What initially drew attention was the massive body where the face and figure were melded together, with exaggerated facial features twisted out of proportion within it. The reason it was unsettling… was because of the eyes, nose, and mouth below it.

“That’s me.”

Witnessing the chaotic blend of one’s own face and body would naturally invoke fear in anyone.

“Indeed. If you couldn’t resist the fear perfectly, you wouldn’t have been able to take a single step away from me from the moment you laid eyes on me.”

However, in the case of Leeha, the resistance threshold against 『Abnormal Condition: Fear』 had exceeded 100% within the game’s Middle Earth, allowing him to gaze at the Uncanny with just a slight sense of discomfort, thanks to his near-complete immunity to fear.

At this point, the average user would have undoubtedly felt uneasy. The Uncanny, after all, was a spirit designed in such a way.

“Are you asleep?!”

“Mmm…”

“What’s this? It’s amazing!”

Yet, Leeha was different. A spirit that reflected its target differently to every viewer!? If it was a 100% customized spirit, there was no way it wouldn’t be affected by 『Abnormal Condition: Fear』! Furthermore, if there was 『Abnormal Condition: Fear』 affecting it?

Leeha knew best.

“Freeze movement! It has an effect that stops movement! I don’t know how far the Uncanny can move, how long it lasts after summoning, or how much it consumes. But if he makes eye contact with the target I desire, I can seize the perfect timing. I can snipe the target without any danger or hassle, shooting bullets into the desired area.”

“Looking at me like that, making those remarks, that face… This human, no, contractor is quite observant.”

Seeing Leeha’s excited expression, the Uncanny smiled—Leeha pondered whether it was even a smile.

Leeha, too, looked back at the Uncanny with a grin.

“Hm, the second one, huh. Who was the first one?”

“It’s a thing of the past. There was a very absurd Wood Elf.”

“Ah… Allen Srna?”

The spirit and Wood Elf. It was a name that had become familiar to Leeha as well. The Uncanny had a momentarily surprised expression – not much different from a smile – and spoke, “Interesting. Human, Leeha. Do you agree to the contract with me?”

“I agree. Top-grade Fear Spirit, Uncanny.”

He nodded his head and extended his right hand.

“Oh, but if the supreme fear is ‘fear of the familiar’, what are the rest?”

『Succeeded in making a contract with the Tog-grade Fear Spirit.』

『Increased spirit intimacy.』

『Learned the skill – Embracing Lesser Fears.』

『You have leveled up.』

Shwaaaa…!

A light emanated from Leeha’s body, and Uncanny’s response echoed beyond the light. Blaugrunn, who had his ears perked more than Leeha, was there.

※: ※ ※

“So they are classified that way. I didn’t know that.”

“You didn’t know either, Blaugrunn?”

Uncanny recognized you.

“It’s because Lord clearly asked for their features. Hmm, it’s interesting, being in the same spirit realm and having a horizontal division system.”

As they headed towards the Dark Forest, Blaugrunn’s mind kept spinning. Leeha chuckled at the sight.

Uncanny had disappeared long ago, but the fear spirit system he mentioned at the end stimulated Leeha and Blaugrunn’s curiosity.

“Well, it is fascinating. While lower fire spirits can use intermediate fire skills, even high-level fire spirits can use them…”

Indeed, the spiritual realm’s system was different.

When the characteristics of lower and intermediate levels differ, it was said that intermediates couldn’t use the features of the lower level.

Only the Fear Spirit King could handle all fears, and even the Top-grade Uncanny could not know what the fear characteristics only the Fear Spirit King could handle.

“Among them, the lowest fear being the fear of death… I thought that would be for the Fear Spirit King or something.”

Uncanny is at the top grade.

Therefore, he knew all the types of lower fears he had gone through. Lower is the fear of death, intermediate is the fear of something specific, and higher is the fear of the unknown. And the fear of the familiar, which is the best quality, that Uncanny might have.

“What would psychoanalysts or psychologists say about this.”

“Huh?”

“Oh, no. I just thought that the conflict between the developers of Middle Earth and various scholars must be quite severe. I realized that the same goes for the system of sniping.”

The essence of sniping as mentioned by Elizabeth and the essence of sniping as mentioned by Kim Wonsa.

What would these two say?

This made him want to pit the two individuals against each other.

“At least I should go visit Sergeant Kim and ask him about it. Pay my respects too. By the way, aren’t you playing games these days?”

Shwick- Shwick-!

Moving through the gel-like substance, and Blaugrunn moving through levitation magic, the two beings had no trouble moving while lost in their own thoughts.

“Summoning Uncanny can be a good thing, but the skill window…”

『Novice’s Fear of the Familiar(0/1)』 Explanation: Do I still look like 『that』 to you? Effect: Summon the Uncanny spirit of the highest grade to the designated target or publicly Mana: 1000 Duration: Mana consumption of 200 per minute Cooldown: 1 hour The immense mana consumption and per minute consumption made it no joke.

“The Curve Shot consumes 900 mana. But if this costs 1,000…”

Character Window: Name: Leeha / Race: Human Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 248(0%) Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 143 HP: 8,200(5,740) MP: 2440

Stats: Strength 675(+590) Agility 4000(+1,382) Intelligence 488(+299) Stamina 291(+198) Mind 125(+115) Remaining Stat points: 5

“Hmm, with my mana at only 2,440, if I put 5 points into Mind – it would be 2,490. Should I use Fear of the Familiar to make the remaining mana 1,490? How can I use this most effectively? Thoughts raced through his mind rapidly.

“Oh no!? It’s barely 10 points short!”

However, what came back was only despair. Summon Uncanny to the designated target only, fire a shot, and run away to Ghost in the Shell? Ghost in the Shell costs 1,500 mana. 10 short.

What if I summon Uncanny publicly and apply it to the main target and accompanying targets? Fire a shot at the main target with Curve Shot and clear the surroundings with scattered bullet shots? Curve Shot costs 900 mana, and Scattered Bullets costs 600. Still, 10 short with 1,500.

“Damn it! Should have invested in Mind a bit more!” (To be continued…)
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Right from the start, it was an absurd situation. When it comes to dealing with MP, 10 points of mind are given when creating the initial character. Currently, Leeha’s mind is 125 points, with an additional +115 points from achievements or items.

‘Ah…’

From the beginning, Leeha hasn’t used a single point of mind! Obtaining a staggering amount in this area was already a luxury, enough to provoke envy from other users.

“It’s not too late now. I should start paying more attention to mana management for a while.”

The character invested 5 points into mind and, after closing Leeha window, darkness on the edge of the forest began to come into view for Leeha.

“Ah! Blaugrunn-ssi! Can you see it clearly now? It’s the perfect time to attack.”

“Is that so?”

With dusk beginning to fall, the Shades would likely start becoming active. As Leeha rummaged through the bag once again to retrieve items, Blaugrunn suddenly raised his head.

“Ha Leeha, be careful! It’s dangerous!”

“Huh? Whoa!”

『Absolute Shield』!”

Blaugrunn quickly cast a spell while embracing Leeha. Completely unaware, Leeha had to endure the onslaught of various types of magic pouring down before him.

“What, what is this sudden magic?”

Despite a massive explosion causing both Blaugrunn and Leeha to be pushed away significantly, thanks to the Absolute Shield, no harm was done. However, Blaugrunn’s face was noticeably distorted.

“I don’t know either, but… that’s incredible power.”

It wasn’t without damage. After checking Blaugrunn’s tense face, Leeha immediately turned his head.

“Absolute Shield has cracks in it…”

The aftermath of the explosion made it difficult to see ahead due to the debris. However, the fact that gold had chipped off from one of the most powerful defensive spells Blaugrunn could use was visibly concerning.

“I sense at least four energies. It’s not a joke. Be careful—”


“Leeha! You son of a-!”

As Blaugrunn was casting a new barrier spell with tension, a voice from the other side of the dark forest could be heard.

“Who- who’s there!? Who is it?”

“I’ll kill you! Because of you—! Get lost!”

The voice sounded familiar, but the owner didn’t immediately come to mind. Did they recognize him? Did someone bear such a grudge against him?

“Elerestra! Celestine! Selena! Noeanen! Kill that bastard right now!”

As the next words followed the voice, he realized who it was. His eyes widened, but there was a strange sense of amusement creeping up.

“Pff, P-Prea.”

The white-eyed spiritualist, Prea, was trying to offer everything she had to him.

“Master! Release the transformation-”

“No, not now.”

Blaugrunn was preparing to transform back into his dragon form to confront Prea, but Leeha stopped him.

“You??”

“I was the one who set the conditions from the beginning… I had somewhat expected this.”

“Conditions? Expectations? Is this the time to talk about that? 『Absolute Barrier』!”

Blaugrunn hastily used barrier magic.

The supreme elemental magic of the four highest-ranked mystical creatures poured down. The supreme water spirit Elerestra. The supreme wind spirit Celestine. The supreme fire spirit Selena. The supreme earth spirit Noeanen. Handling just one would elevate someone’s status as an outsider.

It was a well-known fact from the national war that even a rock mage who once faced Leeha had raised his name by handling just one earth spirit.

Handling the four top-grade spirit indicated a level of skill that could be described as ‘cheating.’

“But you should’ve provided that level of power. Um, certainly… I thought there would be something!”


At this moment, Leeha couldn’t understand why Prea was here, but he knew very well why she was furious with him.

“So, what’s so special about the dark spirit we found with great effort! Who do you think you are! If you guys can’t do it, I’ll kill you all!”

Prea shouted as if pleading. Leeha felt a mix of guilt and satisfaction.

Why were they heading to the Dark Forest? It was because they had negotiated a deal with them to help Leeha escape from the forest in exchange for showing them scenes of Toon’s assassination!

And the one that was missing was right there. Leeha didn’t even have to contract with them. However… when thinking about the connection between Prea and the Demon King’s Army, one thing came to mind.

『I don’t want to play but I want to see!』

“Kishi! How will that addict’s end be?! I want to see! I want to see!”

“Yeah, you’re right, I’m curious, curious!”

The Elementals liked Toon but didn’t want to be close to him. Playful as they were, there would be no more serious beings than the Elementals if it meant protecting their own ego.

Their bodies are always buried within the Element. Let’s film Toon’s death scene for the Elementals and deliver it to them.

Subject: Filming Toon’s death scene for the Elementals

Reward: Move to the outskirts of the Dark Forest East designated for User Shadow Elemental Contract Prohibition (Target: “Prea”)

Condition for Failure: Failure to film Toon’s death scene

Penalty for Failure: -100% Intimacy with all Dark Elementals, nightly unexpected attacks by Shadow Elementals

Therefore, it was necessary to embark on an adventure. Through negotiations, Leeha had to put up two ‘rewards’, and the cost of failure was as brutal as it gets.

From the moment he heard that Toon passed through the Dark Forest, Leeha had the determination to capture him, no matter what.

“Leeha-nim! Then let me retaliate! Just blocking won’t be enough!”

“Retaliate? We have to. But… I will do it.”

“Yes! Yes?”

Casting another spell, Blaugrunn, who was about to rush out, turned back to Leeha with a bewildered expression.


“I know your attacks are strong, Leeha! But the top-grade Elementals are not beings that can be easily destroyed.”

“Well, there are things stronger than swords in this world. Watch carefully now. There are a few things I’ve been curious about for a long time.”

“Wait a minute! Leeha-nim!”

Leeha clasped Black Bass and walked out of Blaugrunn’s barrier. Without giving Blaugrunn any chance to stop him, Prea commanded her Elemental, “He came out on his own feet! Elerestra! Restrain!”

The top-grade Water Elemental, with a flowing skirt, stood before Leeha. Just as a large water droplet seemed to swallow Leeha whole, his mouth finally opened.

“Top-grade Water Elemental, lady Elerestra. Nice to meet you. Is Elaim-nim doing well? It’s been quite a while since I couldn’t greet her.”

“What, how did you…”

“Jellypong, greet her.”

『Myong!』

Swish-!

Jellypong unattached from Leeha’s body. The large water droplet that was rapidly approaching Leeha stopped in its tracks.

“This was directly granted by Lord Elaim, water Spirit King. There’s no way the Water Spirits can’t recognize it. Well… it’s a fact confirmed by ‘Drake’ in Dragon Palace, after all.”

Prea called upon the Water Elemental. Leeha encountered the mermaids who had manifested as water spirits. Among them was even the sea god, who seemed to be the embodiment of the Water Spirit King. If the sea god was indeed the embodiment of the Water Spirit King, could the water spirits used by Prea defy the sea god’s commands? These were the hypotheses that Leeha pondered one day. Confirming it was not difficult since communication with Drake was always possible. Elerestra blinked her large eyes. But Prea, the spiritualist with shimmering white eyes, was blinking at an even faster pace, seemingly unable to focus.

“What, what are you doing, elerestra! This is breaking our promise!”

Prea shouted towards Elerestra, who simply tilted her head in response.

“Well, fine. We’ll discuss that later. Then, selena! Incinerate him!”

“Sure thing. He has a spark in him too!”

The next spirit Prea referred to was the top-grade fire spirit, selena. The fire spirit, who had once targeted Leeha on behalf of Toon, now threw a burning ember at Leeha with a scowling face.

“Leeha-nim!?”

Leeha, however, remained still. He didn’t use Platinum Shield, nor did he dodge using Ghost in the Shell.

“Y-you dare to oppose me… All of you will be excluded…”

Prea, whose forced smile twisted into a grimace, quickly hardened his expression. As flames engulfed the area, Leeha shrugged off the ashes, removing the charred layer from his shoulder.

“By the way, I apologize for my rudeness last time, selena. I troubled you a lot due to my lack of manners. Is Ifrit doing well?”

“Y-you… H-how did you… How could you withstand that attack?”

Leeha looked at the rabbit-eyed Selena, showing a calm smile. Naturally, he had endured it.

“I once fetched a Fire Flower for Ifrit, you see. You haven’t heard about it in the spirit world? Oh, while I was at it, I also took a bit of root for myself… I’m quite resistant to fire.”

Leeha’s fire resistance was +125%.

“Fire… Flower?”

Leeha’s expression of surprise at the differences in the personalities of water and fire spirits clearly showed.

***

“Wow… Impressive.”

“Indeed. He was always a troublemaker, but I never expected him to find his way to a place like this.”

Chiyou couldn’t help but think, ‘It’s incredible.’

How long had it been since they crossed over to the eastern part of the new continent where even spatial movements were restricted and walked northward?

Chasing after the swift footsteps of Bluebeard towards the north, they finally reached a snowy mountain peak.

“The terrain heading north from the western part of the new continent was closer to the eastern region. It even felt like the Arctic over there. Here, everywhere you looked was filled with perennial snow.”

However, the place where Chiyou and Bluebeard stood was not even a ‘summit.’

It was merely the middle of the mountain, where nothing could be seen except snow and ice.

“Could this be the Himalayas?”

The relentless snowstorm, the abrupt crevasses disappearing, and occasional avalanches threatened Chiyou and Bluebeard. Even for her, a high-ranking Ranker, there were traps in the terrain that she couldn’t avoid despite her movements, making her heart race with fear. The level of danger was beyond words.

“If Count Le hadn’t helped, I would have died. Shamefully.”

She said, looking at Bluebeard before raising her head. The mountain peaks still looked far away.

“That way.”

However, there was something faintly visible near the peak.

“It’s Bransylvania Castle.”

“Keep in mind. I won’t be able to help you from there onwards. Be careful. If you think you can’t make it, it’s better to come back more prepared.”

Bluebeard looked straight into Chiyou’s eyes.

It was amusingly serious, but Chiyou understood that his laughter contained no mockery or provocation.

“Is this guy really giving advice…?”

Literally meaning ‘not ordinary.’

The danger there was beyond imagination. Chiyou nodded her head.

She had roughly grasped their current location. However, even if she ‘prepared’, wouldn’t she need to know what to prepare for?

“Well, I appreciate the Count’s concern. But you need to test the water by dipping your foot and checking whether it’s hot or cold.”

Chiyou used a Japanese metaphor, and Bluebeard understood it, bursting into laughter.

He then replied with a cryptic remark.

“Haha, no need to worry about that. The coldest thing you’ve ever experienced since birth will definitely be there.”

Chiyou was approaching the coldest place in the world, the snowy mountains of the northeastern part of the new continent.

(To be continued…)
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“In front.”

“I know.”

Although Bluebeard said calmly, Chiyou had to jump with all his might. What was flying towards them was a lump of snow, but the problem was its size.

“Snow falling the size of a car—”

The frozen lump of snow, the size of a car fallen from a Himalayan-like snowy mountain, exuded an overwhelming pressure that was hard to describe.

Crash!

Chiyou managed to dodge the snow lump by leaping, but then another absurd problem arose.

There was an unbelievable crevasse larger than 3 meters wide.

The snowballs that had been covering the ground and surrounding them were being sucked into the endless gap.

Chiyou barely managed to escape the crevasse after leaping three times into the air.

“It’s like I’m fated to fall here.”

“It’s always like this here. It’s good to be on edge.”

While Bluebeard chuckled and spoke, for Chiyou, each step was flustering.

Once again, the hill behind Chiyou collapsed.

This time, just before the overwhelmed Chiyou was about to be buried under the snow, Bluebeard extended his staff.

“Hold on.”

Chiyou, who was about to be sucked into the collapsing snow along with it, managed to get up with the help of Bluebeard’s staff.

“No matter how I think about it, this doesn’t seem natural…”

Bluebeard said as he retrieved his staff.


“Well, yeah. Probably not.”

“What do you mean?”

“That guy must definitely know.”

“Know…what?”

At Chiyou’s question, Bluebeard nodded his head.

The jester-like blue face of Bluebeard, which always had a hint of mockery, had lost its smile.

Bluebeard pointed towards the Castle of Bransylvania with the tip of his staff. The place was still quite a distance away from where Chiyou was present.

“This cheeky fellow… has already woken up. She might even be watching me. No, did she lead us in the direction she wanted?”

Thunk~ Bathory~.?

Chiyou muttered to herself before speaking aloud, “Excuse me, Bathory-nim… Blood Maiden, Bathory-nim. Known as the right-hand woman of the Count, so naturally, she should open the way for us-”

“The right hand?”

Unexpectedly, upon Chiyou’s words, Bluebeard one wore a puzzled expression. In response to the question about the right hand, Bluebeard suddenly burst into laughter.

“How absurd! Right hand, you say. Have she ever listened as a right hand? Ah, was that the meaning? Heh, I wonder how you know that even though you weren’t there 20 years ago.”

Chiyou still couldn’t comprehend what Bluebeard was saying. Her mention of ‘right hand’ was the only thing she could think of.

The leader on the side of Bluebeard, Bluebeard Le.

And the left hand of Bluebeard, Toon. Then what about the last one? At least based on the content of the quest, it was confirmed that Bathory was present there. Moreover, if a monster of Toon’s caliber was referred to as the ‘left arm of Bluebeard’, then it is only natural to consider a monster of greater stature as Bluebeard’s ‘right arm.’

‘But why is he suddenly saying such things? Trying to listen to my right hand?’

Although it was always difficult to take his words at face value due to the mixture of jest and sincerity in his jokes, Chiyou could at least sense that his remarks were not just a simple jest at the moment.

“Based on just the way he describes Bathory… sinister, arrogant… right. And the expression in my quest-”

『The Crow Hidden in the Bransylvania Castle』


Chiyou glanced at his quest window before pursing his lips.

If the words of Bluebeard were to be taken literally, then the place he was heading to might truly be hellish.

“A monster that has caused trouble for Bluebeard… Not to mention, it’s not even a Demon King’s Fragment but has that level of power?”

『Condition Abnormal: Afflicted by Cold Absorption.』

『50% increase in the chance of being afflicted by Frostbite Abnormal Status.』

『The effects of the Frostbite Abnormal Status are intensified.』

*Censored term.

*Cough!*

“Oh no, not again?”

*Cough, cough!* “Yes, that’s right. What in the world…”

“I’ve told you, haven’t I? It’ll be colder than anything you’ve experienced.”

As Chiyou’s face rapidly paled, Bluebeard shook his head, realizing there was nothing he could do to help. One of the reasons their movements were inevitably delayed upon entering the Himalayan terrain was precisely this.

“Damn it! I’m a ranker!”

As the master of information warfare, their combat skills were never weak. Aside from attacks impossible to predict, they were skilled in avoiding potential threats during the approach phase. In a one-on-one battle, she had confidence that she would not be defeated by anyone. With her level, skills, and beyond that, various achievements and the most powerful items renowned across the continent.

Carrying an abundance of auxiliary buff scrolls and potions, she had brought everything necessary for this journey. However, all their efforts seemed futile in this place.

“I got frostbite just because of this nonsense-”

『Abnormal Status: Black Frostbite (Enhanced) afflicted.』

『All stats reduced by 30%.』

『Stamina reduced below 60%.』

『Abnormal Status: Frostbite (Enhanced) afflicted.』


『1% of max HP reduced per minute for 5 minutes.』

『Movement speed reduced by 50%.』

『All positive auxiliary skills deactivated.』

『Abnormal Status: Frostbite (Enhanced) afflicted.』

『Skill casting speed increased by 100%.』

『Skill duration reduced by 50%.』

『Skill cooldown increased by 50%.』

She too had her low-level days. Despite the distant past, she did not forget about abnormal statuses. Yet, she had never experienced such a vicious abnormal status combo that could dry up and kill a person. No, she didn’t think such a thing existed in this game.

To think that as a ranker, she would lose almost a third of her capabilities to just three enhanced ice attributes abnormal status combos!

“Gee, this is a tough spot. Can you make it?”

Bluebeard plopped down beside the visibly slowed Chiyou.

In the distance, another snowball was flying towards Chiyou. She scrutinized the snowball carefully. Behind the snowball was the Bransylvania Castle.

Chiyou realized at that moment that Bluebeard’s speculation was a ‘hint.’

“Lady Bathory… This snowball was deliberately thrown by Bathory in the Bransylvania Castle to kill those who approached her castle.”

Chiyou had to make a decision. Although the Bransylvania Castle was right in front of her, she couldn’t make it there.

“As long as I can’t resolve the ice attribute abnormal status… there’s nothing I can do.”

If Bluebeard had mentioned coming to a place like this, she would have prepared better items and better abnormal status remedy potions.

“No, the items may not work at all. I might need to bring a few guys from Yamato related to ice.”

Summoning helpers strong in the ice attribute would be of great help. After entering the Bransylvania Castle, another strategy might need to be found.

However, that is only after reaching there, isn’t it? Chiyou bit her lip and gazed at Bluebeard.

“Count?”

“Yes?”

“We should go back.”

Her fixation on Leeha was the only exception.

She knew when to step back, which had successfully led the Shinobigumi until now.

“Haha, that’s how it should be, right?”

“I apologize for causing unnecessary steps. However… I will definitely resolve it next time.”

“Oh, good. With Ghibrid in a frozen state, don’t forget that I need that evil woman’s power as soon as possible.”

“I will do my best.”

“Yes, yes, that’s right. As long as that guy comes back… I can finally relax and search for Pyrot-Cocri.”

“Chiyou bowed her head.

Bluebeard held her waist tightly and leaped.

Poof!

A huge wad of ice shattered over the spot.

They were already disappearing toward the mountain below.

***

“Noeanen – crush that guy!”

“Noeanen, probably not… you are not the same person back then, right? So, please deliver the message next time. We owe a lot at the World Tree Forest. I told Noas, did Noeanen hear it too? The ‘Seed of the World Tree’ is growing well.”

Prea and Leeha called out Noeanen’s name simultaneously.

The tog-grade earth spirit gazed back and forth between the two who called his name, but had no choice but to listen to Leeha.

“The Spirit King… I see. The seed of the World Tree, the seed sown across the continent beyond the sea—”

“I’d prefer to keep the location a secret. Of course, you knew I had sown it. If I hadn’t, we would have been in big trouble.”

With an exaggerated gesture Leeha expressed his distress. Noeanen, who was together with Prea, was a different being from the Noeanen whom Leeha had once encountered in front of the World Tree Forest. However, Gnoas, the Earth Spirit King, as well as the earth spirits, certainly thought that he, a being both the same and different as Noeanen, would know about the matter concerning the seed of the World Tree that the earth spirits considered “most valuable.”

And that was indeed an accurate prediction.

“This is… unbelievable! Noeanen! You won’t leave that guy alone, will you!?”

“Sorry, Prea. Our greatest mission is to germinate the seed of the World Tree. I can’t harm the one who is carrying out our duties in the mortal realm.”

Prea seemed on the verge of crying.

The fact that she had formed a contract with a top-grade spirit was a secret she had kept hidden until now. Though the plan for this occasion was to reveal it all and kill Leeha in one blow!

“Instead of killing him, this is… he was just suppressed all three attributes! It’s ridiculous, Chiyou has never faced such a thing! And if he wasn’t hiding… Then does it mean that Chiyou never fully understood his abilities?”

Prea was someone who never backed down in a battle of wits. In terms of the relationship dynamic with Bluebeard, she was actually in a superior position to Chiyou. Because she could figure out what Chiyou was concealing or hiding through her unique intuition and information exploration using her spirit, she always lived confidently.

In other words, Prea was acknowledging Chiyou to that extent. It was only her failure to acknowledge Leeha that was her downfall.

“Celestine!”

“Yeah, yeah. The only one left is Celestine. Although I’ve seen someone at the entrance of the World Tree Forest, it couldn’t have been him… There’s no connection with Field or any contact with Celestine. So what can we do?”

Leeha reached for the Black Bass’s trigger.

Watching the flow of events, Celestine, who had been waiting for what Leeha would say, could only show a momentarily bewildered expression.

“Blaugrunn. Finish him.”

『Electric Jael.』

During that moment of carelessness.

Leeha, who had been aligning his position with Blaugrunn through whispers, abruptly—”.

“Aw, it’s my ‘partner.’”

Blaugrunn’s praise for Leeha was unmistakable. There was nothing left to be said anymore.

“Celestine. The top-grade wind spirit, annihilate.”

No triggers were pulled, no particular intimidation was exerted.

However, Prea and the top-grade fire spirit already “knew it;” the other top-grade mystical creatures likewise understood it well enough.

Leeha’s words were by no means a bluff. The moment Leeha pulled a finger, Celestine would be annihilated and return to the spirit realm. And as for themselves, unable to touch Leeha, they would have to watch as the dragon under Leeha’s command, and Leeha, act to kill their contractors. At this moment, the battle was over. (To be continued…)
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“You, you- you, hi- hi-”

“Hehe, really, you are out of breath, Prea-ssi. And speaking of which, it seems like you are seriously misunderstanding something… Anyway, without me, you would never have been able to contract with the shade spirits for eternity.”

Prea glared at Leeha with such anger that her hair almost reached the sky.

“What nonsense are you talking about?”

“You used to have a very intellectual image, didn’t you? Weren’t you someone who understood things instantly when I did this? No, perhaps we haven’t had a conversation to that extent before?”

“Stop playing around with nonsense and speak properly, or-”

Prea tried to make one last gamble. As the grade of spirits rose, the spirit’s ego becomes stronger.

The fact that they were completely convinced by Leeha’s words and were engaging in actions that violated the contract with Prea was proof of that.

“But if they’re lower-level spirits, the story would be different! If they are dogs that haven’t been shown yet-”

Prea was confident. She had one more move left. Although they were of lower level, that high-ranking brat would be caught off guard and have no choice but to fall!

Leeha was watching each of Prea’s movements closely.

“I didn’t think persuading you through words would work from the beginning.”

Originally, she had tried to overpower with force. But at this moment, didn’t she possess a better weapon than just strength? While watching Prea, Leeha quietly contemplated.

『Ripe Fear: Revealed』 Appearing before everyone, the top-grade terror spirit Uncanny manifested.

※: ※ ※

“Elaim-nim!”

“S-Sylphid-nim, how did you come here-”

“Ifrit unni!”

“I bow to the Earth Spirit King.”


The four superior spirits quickly knelt down. At that moment, Uncanny addressed all of them.

“Do I still seem like 『that』 to you?”

Uncanny locked eyes with the four superior spirits, Prea, and everyone. Is the ability for one being to lock eyes simultaneously with five beings the power held by the terror spirit?

“Well, seems like that. Is this the horror of a twist.”

“Ah, it’s terrifying. There used to be a movie like that back in the day.

‘Do you still see me as your friend?’

“That kind of thing. How scary would it be to actually experience that.”

Blaugrunn and Leeha, free from the uncanny force, were watching the scene unfold like a movie.

The five beings that had looked shocked just moments ago now wore completely corrupted expressions.

As for Prea, there was no need to even mention her.

“What- no, that can’t be right! You…”

“What are you watching?”

“Only Uncanny knows.”

“Hah, I’ll ask later. That there, it’s not a White-eyed Spirit, it’s a White-faced Spirit.”

While Leeha chuckled for a moment at Prea’s completely horrified expression, soon Prea’s screams engulfed the entire dark forest.

“I won’t kill your contractor, so don’t worry-”

Before Leeha could finish speaking, the four highest-ranking spirits all returned to the spirit realm from Prea’s body. They couldn’t stay with the unconscious spiritualist any longer.

It was a strange experience even for Leeha.

“Oh, so they faint in the Middle Earth too… I’ve seen stun effects before, but this is different.”

“What kind of obvious statement is that? Of course they faint.”


Blaugrunn looked at Leeha with a strange expression, but Leeha just shrugged; there was nothing else to say.

At this moment, what had happened to Prea’s ‘connection state’?

“If she died, she’d log out, but there’s no light now. Is it a brief connection block, leaving the game character connected without sending her back to reality… No, perhaps how much can the effect of 『Abnormal State: Fear』 be maximized to reach this level?”

The 『Abnormal State: Fear』 that Leeha remembered rendered the affected unable to move for about two minutes.

Of course, his thoughts on 『Abnormal State: Fear』 being just about instilling fear came from his own perspective. 『Abnormal State: Fear (Enhanced)』 caused a more intense shock than that.

In other words, what was currently happening went beyond simply rendering the body immobile; compared to the usual log out that made the character disappear, it was creating an inexplicable situation where the connection was halfway cut and the character was left as is.

“Is there even a cheat like this?”

Snipe?

At least, it would be an occasion where even a chuckle wouldn’t escape from Leeha.

“Hehehe! Uncanny-ssi! Hurry back! They’ve suffered enough!”

“Oh no! I have a question.”

Swoosh~

Attempting to ask what Prea, who was trying to conserve mana by releasing skills, had seen, it was already too late.

“Anyway, it’s like you, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Well, I’m blaming myself too, so don’t say it like that.”

“Um~…”

Despite achieving the incredible feat of subduing Prea and the four highest-grade spirits simultaneously, Leeha and Blaugrunn were in a heated argument.

Meanwhile, a small groan escaped Prea’s lips as she lay there.

Leeha took out the cheapest potion from his bag and applied it to Prea’s face.

“Ugh! Stop it! Stop-”


“Geez. Are you in your right mind now? The first time I’ve seen someone faint in Middle Earth.”

“Haah, haah, haah.”

Prea wheezed heavily. Her short and rapid breathing indicated she still hadn’t regained her senses, so Leeha extended both hands to show there was no longer any threat.

“It’s over. The spirits have all gone back.”

“What? How did that happen……”

“I get that you’re angry, but please bear with it. We still have to talk. Is this too one-sided? Nonetheless, since I won, let’s have a conversation, Prea.”

Leeha plopped down, looking around at Prea’s decision.

Even in her completely defenseless state, Prea was taken aback when she saw Leeha. It wasn’t just because Blaugrunn was glaring at her menacingly. Why did I faint? What on earth did I see?

The assault carried out in a fit of rage, losing composure and cool judgment, resulted in the worst possible outcome. And at this moment, Prea understood everything perfectly.

“Hiya…? Who in the world are you?”

Her white eyes darted nervously. Leeha met her gaze straight on, furrowing his brow slightly.

“Well, seems like I’m jumping the gun with what I want to say. Still, considering the propriety, I’ll ask the questions first. Even though you had no initial connection with Chiyou, no association with Bluebeard, why in the world did you decide to join the Demon King’s Army? Let’s have a deep conversation about each of us. Well, if you have any questions yourself, I’ll let you ask a few.”

– Of course, I have no intentions of answering straightforwardly.

He didn’t bother adding that. However, if a spirit reluctant to come forward and answer questions from the one who showed the “Terror Spirit”, the one who banned the contract with the “Dark Spirits”, it was unlikely to be found on the Middle Earth.

Prea’s eyes, which had been staring blankly just a moment ago, began to gleam.

Anyhow, the creator of the Middle Earth Ranker is all jest. But I knew that this would get a better reaction. If you understand what the other party wants?

“It’s much easier to handle.”

Prea had placed herself perfectly on top of Leeha’s palm.

“Hehe, it tickles, Will-o’-Wisp! This kid is fidgeting.”

Leeha was observing a small playful ball of light next to Prea. Only when he strained his eyes could he barely make out the mischievous figure of a young girl within the ball of light.

“A user contracted to a light spirit… Well, there’s no doubt they are the highest level among the spiritualist users.”

As they conversed with Prea and pulled out various pieces of information, both Leeha and Blaugrunn were astonished by the revelations, and what they now saw before them was one outcome of that.

“Anyway, I have acquired the Light Spirit. I tried to contract with the Dark Spirit too, but it seems there’s no way forward on the Old Continent.”

“Actually, I didn’t expect Chiyou to catch on so quickly, but Chiyou does have a subtle side to her. Hehe.”

Prea, now displaying an affectionate attitude, tapped Leeha’s shoulder with a familiar sound. Observing her demeanor, Leeha was momentarily taken aback.

‘Is she being friendly, or is she trying to charm… Can’t she talk to people, only to spirits?’

Is this how one usually interacts with spirits?

‘And Chiyou has a subtle side? My word, if the Shinobigumi folks heard this, they’d go crazy with envy.’

Is there anyone who has experienced both Chiyou and the Shinobi Gumi that could evaluate her in this manner?

Even Lark, who fully acknowledged Chiyou’s quirkiness, wondered as he watched Prea still giggling.

“So, you’ve decided to introduce the Dark Spirit, along with the other spirits, to Bluebeard, and have come here.”

“Phew. Yes, I’m sorry about earlier. Women sometimes have those days when they get really angry, you know. You understand, right? Oh, but by the way, what was that thing on your chest? The slime-like thing from earlier, was it really a gift from the Water Spirit King? Where is the Water Spirit King? I’d like to meet him too-”

“Wait! Quiet!”

Interrupting Prea, who was talking nonstop, Leeha covered her mouth and organized my thoughts.

“While Toon was returning to his hometown, Prea took on the role of ‘Toon’ and that was a directive from Bluebeard. Well, to be precise, it was a ‘deal’ that Prea received from Bluebeard, a ‘quest’ if you will. She faithfully carried it out.

Considering that it was because of that task that Prea stirred up the spirits and festeo, it was, in a way, the very cause of all the hardships for me, but now that it’s ‘over’, there was no need to be angry anymore.

Having faithfully completed that quest, Prea was introduced to a dwelling of dark spirits by Bluebeard. As an additional hint, she was told that by making a contract with the Dark Spirits, there was a high probability of connecting with other spirits that possessed the Dark Top attribute.

Prea had come all the way to the Dark Forest with a self-assured demeanor, saying something like ‘I’ve never failed in blind dates’, just as she once told Bluebeard, only to find out that the contract itself had been sealed by me beforehand.

The moment she vowed to find and kill Leeha, she came across me entering the Dark Forest.”

“If it had been that moment, I might have rushed in without a second thought. Hehe, but I have to hold back. That’s the most important thing, isn’t it?”

When I smiled, Prea took it as a signal of a good sign and was about to bombard me with questions again. Of course, I was the one who first extended my hand to stop her.

“Anything else? You must have attached yourself to the Demon King’s Army not just to find the Dark Spirits.”

“Attached? No way! Of course, that’s not the only reason, and if you call the Dark Spirits ‘just’, you’ll likely incur the wrath of the five hundred thousand Elementalists of Middle Earth.”

“Understood. Understood. Let’s retract that statement. So, what else were you aiming for?”

Leeha wondered if she was aware of her current situation or not. In a way, Prea, as a ‘user attached to the Demon King’s Army’, was in a state where she was being ‘detained and interrogated’ by Leeha.

Even if she is dragged along, she might end up being imprisoned, right?

Due to the nature of the game, they couldn’t inflict a tremendous penalty, but she would surely be in a situation significant enough to have an impact. Yet, she can still express her anger so openly. It was confusing for Leeha to see her as a being with pure White Reaper eyes.

“Oh my, as I’ve been saying since earlier, I am not siding with the Demon King’s Army! You can ask the spirits that I made contracts with, or better yet, since you’re acquainted with the Water Spirit King, you can ask him directly.”

“But you said you exchanged quests. So, that’s what it is, right?”

“Well, how should I put this? It’s business.”

“Alright… Speak in simpler terms, please.”

Leeha shook his head. (To be continued.)
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Prea winked and flashed a smile at Leeha, but Leeha remained stoic.

“Ah, I didn’t receive the power of the Demon King’s Fragment. So, Igor, Faust, Chiyou, etc., please don’t treat me like them”, she said.

“But you’re on their team”, he replied.

“Ugh, that’s… do you think that way over there too?”

Prea asked, looking puzzled.

“Do you think that way over there? Wait a minute. Over there?”

“Huh?”

“Just a moment, just a moment, just a moment.”

Leeha pondered on Prea’s state.

What exactly was this woman’s position?

‘Well, I could confirm with Drake.’

Wasn’t Elaim also furious with Bluebeard? Yet, a water spirit user joined the Demon King’s Army? It didn’t make sense. Even if the water spirit itself broke the contract and came out, it would be a significant event.

“Oh, that thing… The terror spirit?”

he asked.

“Yes.”

“That… something horrible happened.”

Prea approached Leeha, swallowing nervously. Looking at her face that feared even mentioning the Uncanny, Leeha once again felt the effect of the Terror Spirit.

One couldn’t know what she saw through the Uncanny. Still, Uncanny created a state that could instill fear and confusion in Prea, comparable to forever, which could create immense terror and chaos.

“Just the thought of it makes me nauseous. Yet, she still tries to unveil the true identity of the Terror Spirit. I have to acknowledge that she’s as greedy about spirits as ever”, he thought.


If it were an ordinary user, they wouldn’t even want to imagine it. Isn’t that the difference between a ranker and regular users?

“Rare spirits in the mental realm are well known to Prea like Blaugrunn. Maybe she won’t miss this opportunity. It’s really persistent. No, what kind of mind is this? A sudden thought occurred to me.”

“Is this, the terror spirit much, much more precious than the dark spirits?”

In an instant, Leeha’s pupils dilated. Himself possessing the terror spirit. The route to clear the quest with the dark spirits. The power to sway the contract status with both spirits. And Prea’s position.

“Um, Prea.”

“Yes?”

“We’re going to enter the Dark Forest from now on.”

“Yes! Um, are we going to meet the shades there? Will you sign a contract with them if we go?”

“Don’t talk nonsense and laugh like that. I still can’t determine if you’re a part of the Demon King’s Army or not.”

At Leeha’s words, Prea immediately put on a gloomy expression. Her actions, revealing all her inner thoughts outwardly, were actually making Leeha’s thoughts more complicated.

Is this woman clever or foolish?

Is this sincere or acting?

And from now on, Leeha was going to find out.

“But there’s not absolutely no way. If I clear the quest and speak well, I might be able to lift the contract prohibition condition. I have to discuss that first.”

“Really? For real? Really?”

“Yes. The possibility is more than 80%. It’s not asking for impossible conditions, and it won’t be a loss for the shades either.”

“Okay! Okay! What do I need to do for you to lift the seal on the contract with the dark spirits?”

Prea approached Leeha, clasping her hands tightly.

Leeha looked around.

『Mana Clairvoyance』


Zzzing-!

There was no special reaction around them.

“Blaugrunn, do you sense anyone hiding nearby?”

“No, there’s no one.”

Blaugrunn answered as if he was already prepared.

Leeha slowly approached Prea and then leaned towards her ear.”

Stay with Chiyou… and send me information.”

“In-in-information?”

As Prea hesitantly opened her mouth, Leeha looked up from her ears and met her gaze.

“Yes, information. Everything about the Demon King’s Army and Chiyou. How big Yamato is and how many soldiers belong to it. Where is Bluebeard, where he will go next. What Chiyou is most concerned about at the moment. Where Sasuke, who acts as her arms and legs, is going and what information he is collecting.”

Chiyou strengthened her voice while looking into those white eyes without black pupils.

“If what you say is true and you are not part of the Demon King’s Army… there will be no harm in doing this, right? In fact, it might even benefit us! Glory to the Wood Elves!”

Then he changed the atmosphere with a light smile. Even as Leeha raised both arms with exaggerated movements, Prea’s expression remained unchanged.

She just stared blankly, still not understanding the meaning. However, Leeha did not provide any further explanation.

“Is it a performance? Is it real? Take off the mask. Depending on the result, you might… just have to discard it.”

No longer receiving information about the current situation between the New Continent and the Demon King’s Army, everything was related to their first intelligence warfare for Leeha.

※ ※ ※

“Sir Lark. His Majesty is summoning you.”

“Whew… Understood. I will report immediately.”

Nodding his head, Lark stood up from his seat. The headquarters of the Royal Guard, located slightly away from the royal palace of Minis, was filled with tension.


“Captain, are you really going to move?”

“I have promises to keep. Besides, there seems to be a convenient opportunity, so I should make a deal.”

“It might not end well if you poke around there. You know how stubborn the Commander’s…”

“Hah, all I have to worry about is stepping down from the position of Commander of the Royal Guard in the New Continent. I won’t be kicked out, will I? By the way, when was the approval for the request? It’s about time. Sigh, only Holy Knight benefits from my hard work.”

As Pung hesitated to continue speaking with an anxious face, Lark put on an exaggerated smile.

As the Commander of the Royal Guard in the New Continent and the Deputy Commander in the old continent, now that they were back at the headquarters, they were just ordinary knights.

Without any rank or position, they were just ordinary knights belonging to the Virtue Knights Order, with no special power.

“That’s what I’m saying. Why bother making a fuss about it! There’s nothing to gain from it!”

“Heh?”

“Hmm?”

“Just trust and follow me.”

Lark said as he left the headquarters. Even though he was showing his back without looking back at Pung, just seeing his back made Pung’s heart race.

“Damn it, why do I have to suffer being dragged around by that guy. Are we supposed to assume Romero will win and plan the budget!? And that too, on a larger scale than the previous dispatch, based on historical standards of expedition size!”

“Alright! Give me a break! Haha.”

Lark laughed while listening to Pung’s complaints. Entering the royal palace and approaching the king was an extremely solemn affair. Since the appearance of Kaztor, the security system of the Minis capital had been further strengthened, to the point where even knights from the capital defense corps were strictly prohibited from personally approaching the king to ensure his safety.

“Is Kaztor really that remarkable of a dark elf? Or was his appearance just that impactful? It’s a bit disappointing. If only I had been in Ezwen at that time.”

Would he have been able to handle it if it were him? Lark briefly entertained the thought of bravado, but soon shook his head.

“Then again, Leeha was there, right? But they still missed him, which is quite… No. Wait, what was it again? I have my 『Sword』.”

Even with a support, Leeha couldn’t kill him. Reflecting on this fact, Lark hastily shifted his thoughts once more. It was as if he unconsciously admitted to himself that he was weaker than Leeha.

Finally, as Lark stood in front of the king’s recognition room, a guard’s spear struck the floor heavily. After the palace alert was issued, the door opened automatically.

The interior was similar to Fibiel, but the seating arrangement differed in height. Everything in Minis operated according to the logic of power. The powerful held high positions, while the weak occupied lower ones; that was the natural order here. The king sat at the highest level, with his court officials arranged in a descending order of heights, observing Lark entering.

Of course, not a single one of them cast a reverent gaze at him. Power for them was the authority derived from politics and wealth, so in this moment, Lark’s position was insignificant.

After all, he was just a simple knight belonging to the capital defense corps.

“Servant Lark.”

“I pay my respects to the king, Your Highness.”

His bow was so succinct that it was hard to find any trace of formality. As the unnervingly brief greeting in front of the king concluded, the person to the king’s right spoke up. This individual held the next highest position after the king.

“I heard about the appeal to appoint Romero as the future pope.”

“Yes, minister Klaus.”

Lark gazed directly at him. Klaus’s brow twitched.

“What are you saying! Aren’t you a member of the Virtue Knights, tasked with defending the Minis capital and prioritizing the protection of His Majesty and the citizens? Yet you propose electing Romero? What is the meaning behind this? Why risk our forces when we can simply weaken Fibiel?”

“I am aware, which is why I requested this special ‘appeal’ session to explain in person, minister Nicholas.”

“Preposterous! How dare a mere commoner request an audience with the king, violating the palace’s protocol! What audacity! Allowing such an audience in the first place-”

“Do you mean to suggest my wrong in permitting it, Nicholas?”

The king spoke up. Lark had to bow his head as well. The weight of the words coming from one who held the unquestionable right of absolute speech was solemn.

“Is there even… a possibility of that, Your Highness. I only wish to speak about the palace’s protocol and order-”

“The Chief Justice, who ranks above you, does not speak about the law and order. Act as befits a Minister.”

“I will heed your words, Your Majesty.”

To the right of the king, the highest-ranking dignitary.

To the left of the king, the Chief Justice on the second-highest tier.

Below them, the Finance Minister.

The simultaneous summons of these three individuals indicated a meeting of utmost importance, unless it was not a high-level conference.

Standing opposite the Finance Minister, who knew this better than anyone, was Phebe, who stood at the height between the Chief Justice and the Finance Minister.

“Don’t be so adamant. If Lark’s frank advice is from sincerity, and if Minister Ewin, who has experienced life in the New Continent more than anyone in Minis, will he not act in the best interests of our country?”

“Are you trying to defend family, ewin!”

“Nicholas. This place is not for personal disputes.”

“Oh, uh… Excuse me, General Ewin!”

After the Kaztor incident, General Ewin, the newly appointed Commander-in-Chief of the Minis forces, also known as the “Fox of the Prairie”, was observing Lark with gentle eyes.

Lark and Ewin were not strictly ‘family’, with Lark being a knight and Ewin a military officer. However, at least Lark could see that they shared ‘similar thoughts.’

‘Even in this place, there was an ally after all. But is it really the only ally? The only one who grasps the importance of Romero’s election.’

Lark composed himself. The final decision lay with the king. But before taking down the king, they had to outmaneuver the three dignitaries.

‘Legally, economically in terms of future revenue and expenses, and decisively in terms of the situation between the Old Continent and the New Continent, we must outweigh these three.’

Any Minis player knew this fact well. It was impossible.

These three individuals were at the pinnacle in various fields, essentially the ‘endgame bosses’ for players who wished to engage in administrative, commercial, and crafting aspects like Ramwol Rulers. Facing such formidable players in each field, leading Minis through challenging quests and navigating the intricacies of the palace was akin to steering a three-horse carriage to any Minis player seeking advanced gameplay outside combat professions. Even with such opponents ahead, Lark stood undaunted, meticulously presenting his story while calming his breath. (To be continued…)
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Even though he was the closest aide to the king, the Chief Secretary was one of the weakest. It was already around 7 hours and 50 minutes since three scrolls were piled next to Lark.

“Now… is it finally over?”

Lark licked his dry lips.

In reality, the prickling sensation would have made his eyebrows furrow. It took a whopping 8 hours to defeat the three, but it wasn’t a complete victory. It was merely turning the tide to neutrality, as anything beyond that was impossible with Lark’s power alone.

‘It’s still okay. This should be enough. After all, what matters is the king.’

At that moment, ewin, who had been supporting Lark all along, spoke up.

“I understand what you’ve been talking about all this time. But is it really worth it? Regardless of Romero becoming the Pope, Fibiel must dispatch a large number of personnel to the New Continent as part of the ‘Punitive Measures.’

We will also come to know about the Demon King’s Fragments while searching for Kaztor.”

Listening to Ewin’s words, Lark nodded his head. The fox on the prairie took a brief pause.

“In that case, wouldn’t it be more practical for us to just obtain that information with a reasonable number of personnel? If Fibiel suffers significant losses on the New Continent, we could possibly absorb and merge a weakened Fibiel. It would be a bloodless process. Do you really think it’s more valuable for Romero to become the Pope and for us to send personnel to the New Continent at a level similar to Fibiel?”

This was what he was suggesting—the possibility of a bloodless conquest. There might be a chance to absorb every drop of Fibiel’s capital without shedding a single tear, making it a real possibility!

As Ewin finished speaking, the atmosphere in the room changed. The 1480 who had been subdued by Lark regained their momentum, but Lark remained unfazed.

“I didn’t expect General Ewin to say something that doesn’t sit well with you. Hehe.”

“Hmm?”

“I majored in history—no, just a slip of the tongue. Studying the history of Middle Earth… various words come to mind. From small-scale skirmishes to national wars and even massive invasions. Whenever a battle begins, we weigh values greater than life itself. Just like General Ewin does now.”

Lark paused for a moment and locked eyes with Ewin. Despite seeing Lark’s reproachful gaze, ewin’s expression remained unchanged.

Lark continued, “And when it comes to ending a battle, it is said that life is the most precious thing. Many have seen it. I’m not sure what’s right and how much it will repeat. Therefore, there is one thing we need to think about. If there is no right answer in what we have done so far… shouldn’t it change? There is nothing more important than life itself. Life is the most valuable thing. Hence, we must fight.”

Lark shifted his gaze. The eyes that had been meeting Ewin’s passed by everyone and turned towards the king.

“It’s to prevent those who have ‘ruined themselves’ in the New Continent from being called here.”


It was no longer a matter of persuasion. The expressions of the attendants became stiff as if a lecture had turned into a lecture. Even though it was enough for the arrogant remarks to be made, Lark was not the type to say such things.

“And even if we annex Fibiel through bloodless conquest? Do you think we can stop the Demon King’s Fragments who have crossed over to the Old Continent? Before a proper system is established, they will cross the sea. With the borders to be guarded more than doubled… Can you handle them?”

Lark smiled slyly and looked back at Ewin once more. Who was Ewin?

A veteran who participated in the Second Human-Demon Great War would certainly not be unaware of the fear of the Demon King’s Fragments.

As Ewin fell silent, Lark chuckled once again.

“I think it is General Ewin who has actually fought before who would know best. That’s impossible.”

“Right. It seems so.”

As Lark’s words came to an end, ewin acquiesced. It was only then that Lark saw through Ewin’s intentions.

‘Well, that’s really quite a remarkable old man. He’s building up his own ‘opposition image’, too, isn’t he? I heard he wanted to go to the New Continent more than anyone else.’

However, he couldn’t publicly assert it because it would offend the king’s sensibilities.

Therefore, ewin positioned himself appropriately and deliberately tackled Lark to make everyone uncomfortable with reasonable words. The king remained silent. In the end, it was regrettable for Lark.

“I can’t avoid bringing up this topic. I was planning to save it for a little later.”

He had tried to win without playing a single card, but it seemed difficult to do so against an opponent of the highest level.

“You may find the bloodless annexation of Fibiel appealing, but in reality, Fibiel and the likes can be overthrown at any time.”

“What do you mean?”

“Yes. With the power of our minstrels, it is possible. Provided that our minstrels are in their normal state, of course.”

“What do you mean by that, sir Lark?”

“We lions of bravery can overcome any enemy. But isn’t it difficult to catch the parasite within the belly of the beast?”

Oh,

The king’s face lit up for the first time. Not a single person present failed to understand Lark’s words.


“Can you take responsibility for those words?”

“Of course. I am aware of individuals connected to Bluebeard faction and the Minis faction. Moreover… I have come to know that he is still maintaining a certain line with individuals in our royal court.”

“Ridiculous! How dare someone attempt to ridicule their own country!”

The Finance Minister lashed out at Lark, rolling his eyes.

Lark stared back at him.

“Unfortunately, I cannot speak of it here. However… I can swear on my 『Sword』, minister Nicholas.”

The room fell silent in an instant. Everyone’s expressions hardened. The king spoke up.

“It must be related to Romero becoming the Pope and capturing the parasites of betrayal.”

“Indeed.”

“Very well. Knight Lark, speak of your desires. What does our country need to do to ensure Romero’s election?”

The king finally nodded. Lark clenched his fist.

With a blend of rational and emotional appeal, the most effective speech one could make to the highest level, Lark managed to deliver over eight hours and thirty minutes of it.

In that situation, he desired only one thing, one person.

“Lend me Cheka. Along with a license to kill.”

Without a moment’s hesitation, the king nodded.

***

“So, are you dying for it? Really dying?”

Lark, along with his comrades, including Harlow, stood before the leader. Virtue Order, which controlled much of the new continent.

“What about the Commander?”

“Not yet. We need to finish things first.”


Snip, snip, snip.

Nodding his head as if it were no big deal, Lark replied, “Great! So, this time, we’ll be aiming higher than just a captain, right?”

“Of course!”

“As expected, commander Lark!”

His subordinates were delighted as if it was just another day at work. Lark, who was often met with all kinds of insults from others, always received the highest praise from his own men.

Lark smiled as he looked at them.

“But there won’t be any promotions to higher ranks for you.”

“Huh? What do you mean, commander?” asked one of the subordinates.

“I mean this time it won’t be just dispatching the knights. It will be a large-scale mission with the intention of facing the Demon King’s Fragments head-on, involving Fibiel, Shazrashian, and Kraven. We’ll have to either annihilate or almost seal the Demon Lord’s pieces. Only after creating a situation where they can no longer be active, can we return to the mainland”, Lark explained.

“Th-then…”

“Yes, of course, ewin should become the overall commander. It fits nicely. Isn’t it fortunate? We have also agreed to cooperate with the Paleos in the ‘Coexistence Agreement’, so there shouldn’t be a shortage of land. We just have to borrow it by offering a reasonable price”, Lark continued.

Seeing their admired superior unable to achieve a special promotion, Lark gave a smile, putting emphasis on the word ‘Coexistence Agreement.’

Realizing that they were the very group that had been on the verge of gaining it, all the members of the Virtue Knights burst out laughing, marveling at the sudden reversal of atmosphere.

However, the voice that reached them was not Pung’s.

“Indeed. Were you drawing such a picture all along?”

“W-what!?”

“Who is it!”

With a sudden voice, all the members of the Virtue Knights drew their swords. How could no one have noticed the presence of someone casting a shadow behind Lark with so many people around him? Due to this oversight, the Knights could only be more bewildered than necessary.

“Cheka, huh? Nice to meet you. I’m Lark”, Lark casually leaned back, his joking face matching his playful demeanor. But Cheka extended his hand towards the seemingly carefree Lark.

There was no trace of laughter or jest in his demeanor, making it impossible to find any trace of amusement or playfulness.

“Cheka.”

“Hehe, alright, alright. I’ve only heard rumors about you, so I didn’t know much about you in reality. Well then, would you like to come in and talk for a bit?”

“No need for that. I have received the details of the quest you mentioned to the king in full. I just stopped by to assess your sincerity. But if you are painting such a picture… I will do my best in my role as well, as I think it is best for our country.”

Cheka took out a gem.

Is he just going to say what he has to and disappear? Lark roughly understood what Cheka meant by his words, but he felt regretful to send him off like this.

“Wait a moment! Can you handle it well without getting caught? Don’t abuse that ‘license’ too much-”

“I don’t think you called me without knowing about it.”

Shwoosh-! Cheka’s figure disappeared. Lark smacked his lips.

“Well… no, since I’ve only heard rumors… Of course, they must have called you without knowing about it, you rascal.”

“Ch-Chief? What was that just now?”

Suddenly, no one, not even the users or NPCs, fully understood the commotion that had just occurred. Pung asked Lark, but Lark just bowed his head and quietly hummed a tune.

“The secret police of Minis.”

What is a secret police? Does such a thing exist? Is it an official job or just a nickname?

Pung chattered on to Lark, but nothing entered Lark’s ears. At this moment, there was one word that was the most shocking to Lark upon hearing Cheka’s words.

“But a quest… was that a user? I thought he was an NPC all along.”

In the vast expanse of Middle Earth, there were still many things unknown to all and sundry.

“Why do we have so many people in Minis who play with such distinctive concepts? Are there many naive Europeans here? Am I not also seen that way in the eyes of others?”

Even in his moment of shock, his sense of humor was still working smoothly. While Lark was changing the landscape in Minis, Fibiel’s movements were also quite lively.

The knights of the Sacred Knights, who witnessed the power of Ghibrid, led by Shin Nara, put pressure on nobles and various other NPCs from all angles.

Even the King of Fibiel, who wanted to reduce the so-called ‘Kaztor Search Team’, could not help but succumb to the momentum of Shin Nara.

“But if I were alone, I wouldn’t have been able to do this much. This time… I can only say thank you for entrusting me with this task.”

“I moved for my own sake, so there’s no need to thank me. Rather, I was relieved that Shin Nara moved for me.”

It was a mutual acknowledgment, but the exchanged glances were far from gentle. The woman facing each other was Ram Hwayeon ram and Shin Nara. (To be continued…)
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“No direct benefit returning to Hwahong, as far as I know.”

“Right. I don’t want to mention that to the Sacred-affiliated knights. I just hope they don’t think we’ll be stuck on the old continent forever.”

… There’s still no basis for -advancing to the new continent. What can she do in a place where there are no significant cities other than Juma City? Business? Well, if that’s the case, it might be Ram Hwayeon’s specialty, but there may not be goods worth selling.

The conversation went back and forth so sharply that it was hard to tell if they were allies or enemies.

Ram Hwayeon was actively avoiding Hwahong’s expansion into the new continent, but Shin Nara also knew that it wasn’t that simple.

In reality, Ram Hwayeon did not have a significant number of goods. Many users were already selling items, and unless it was a special item, most of them were being managed by Juma City, so there was no room for them to leave a mark.

“We will take care of it ourselves. Just by assisting the Hwajung, it is a great advantage for Hwahong-”

“Lies.”

“What?”

The groundwork for a full-fledged entry into the new continent had been laid. As she tried to continue talking about it, Shin Nara’s sharp voice pierced like a needle.

Ram Hwayeon, who had been beating around the bush, finally faced Shin Nara head-on.

Shin Nara said, “That’s not the reason.”

Shin Nara took a deep breath, frustration apparent in her voice. The expression on Ram Hwayeon’s face changed in an instant. She knew what Shin Nara was going to say, even without listening.

“W-what are you talking about! Do you think I would make such a choice just for -just for that reason?”

“Just for that reason? Is it just a ‘just’ reason to you?”

As Ram Hwayeon hesitated, Shin Nara gently shook her head.

“No, I-it’s not like that-”

“If… If it’s ‘just’ for that reason. I wish you would back off.”

But it wasn’t sadness. Shin Nara’s clenched fist trembled.


Finally, Ram Hwayeon’s confusion subsided. This woman is sincere. At this moment, she doesn’t just want to talk about the matters within Middle Earth. She wants to talk about things beyond the game. If that’s the case, there’s no backing down. The eldest daughter of Ram Long Group had never backed down in such moments.

“Oh… Never.”

“Yes?”

“Shin Nara, you don’t have the right to decide that.”

“W-what- just like you couldn’t decide until a moment ago-”

“That’s right. I’m not sure either. But… there is one thing that’s a fact.”

Ram Hwayeon didn’t reveal what that one thing was. She simply gazed quietly at Shin Nara. Shin Nara met her gaze head-on. Ram Hwayeon then smiled slightly and opened her mouth again.

“What’s so good about that clueless guy? Hmph, you might have similar thoughts.”

“……. It must be tough. Fine! Ah, it was ridiculous to start off with talking from the beginning.”

Shin Nara stretched lazily and approached Ram Hwayeon. Then, she extended her hand. The gesture wasn’t a movement of attack—it was for a handshake.

“If that’s how you feel, I’ll oblige. One on one… and it won’t end until there’s a clear winner.”

A clear challenge! Ram Hwayeon laughed as she took Shin Nara’s hand.

“If love battles were fought on the fencing court, I would have lost a long time ago.”

“First, anyway, words.”

The two women confirmed each other’s feelings. Although the act of “confirmation” brought an unmistakable sense of emotions, what lay beneath it was far from simple agreement.

Once they let go of each other’s hands, the gazes of the two women began to ignite once again.

Shhh…!

Near the main gate of the royal palace, a glimmer of light sparkled briefly, then someone dashed towards the gate.

“Whew! Oh, what’s this? You two were both here? Oh right! You can enter the Mage’s Headquarters now? How did you manage to get in? Kidd, when something like this happens, you should let us know, but you just—”

“Hey, you weren’t here! ‘Kidd’ told me about it!”


“Oh, he did? He informed Blaugrunn?”

Muttering to himself, the running person turned out to be Leeha and Blaugrunn. The two women smiled as they looked at Leeha.

“Leeha?”

“Huh? Yes?”

Encircling Leeha in the center, Shin Nara and Ram Hwayeon stood on his left and right. He inadvertently chuckled at their bright smiles.

“Are you asking for a high five? Did something go well?”

Then, as he raised both hands, two spicy fists flew towards him.

“Ouch! What, why are you hitting me? It’s not like we’re doing a meet!”

“Good job.”

“Keep it up.”

“Yep.”

They slapped the back of his hand and passed by without looking back. Watching them walk away, he could only feel bewildered.

“What in the world? Have things not been going well with pushing Romero to become the Pope?! Come to think of it, I should contact Prea. It’s been about four days since I met Prea… when should I make contact with her?”

Two women passed by laughing and evaluating him. After experiencing that, his first thought was about Middle Earth! How could he ever imagine life without Middle Earth now?

“Really, Leeha-nim, miss?”

“Huh? Why are you smiling, Blaugrunn?”

“You seem pleased.”

“What are you talking about? What’s up with everyone today?”

Blaugrunn looked at him with a puzzled expression.

With a face that clearly showed no understanding of English, he faced the ‘Mage Headquarter’ at the Fibiel Palace, where he had never been before.


He walked towards the Kijung and threw something at Kijung privately.

Kijung: Oh, hyung! You’re here!

Leeha: You seem in a good mood. Everything going well?

Kijung: It’s going really well! Unbelievable! It’s only been four days and we already have a 5:5 balance?”

Leeha: Really? Already?”

When he heard Kijung’s voice, a smile tugged at the corners of his mouth. There were about five days left. If the prediction ratio for Tusculani, the chairman of 09, and Cardinal Romero had reached 5:5 in just four days, Romero’s chances of winning would increase further.

Kijung: The first-class assistant from Minis really did a great job. Oh, I should’ve shown you, hyung.”

Leeha: Huh, that Lark guy, he knows when to do things. Who did he send?”

Kijung: Oh, what was his name? Cheka? First time I’ve heard of him. Do you know him, hyung?”

Leeha: … Cheka?”

He stopped in his tracks. Blaugrunn looked back at him, but he didn’t easily step away.

Leeha: Why is that name coming up here? Cheka?”

He remembered it clearly. It was Cheka who protected the King of Minis when he opened the letter containing the secret of Rotzak = Kaztor.

‘Ewin was associated with brains. In other words, Cheka was a brawn.’

Lark, with a self-assured expression, had mentioned to Ezwen that he would send someone to carry out the ‘undercover operation’.

Of course, Lark is unaware that Leeha knows this fact. Only Kijung knows that Leeha had orchestrated things such as Blaugrunn turning into Ghibrid.

‘Normally, when it comes to undercover operations, sending someone with strong negotiation skills or information expertise is common sense. I thought someone else would come instead.’

Cheka, the brawn.

Leeha sent a coded message to Kijung again.

Leeha: How was it? What did that person do?

Kijung: Hmm, I don’t know. They greeted me on the first day, but I haven’t seen them since then.

Leeha: … Really?

Kijung: Yeah. I only know bits and pieces of information. By the way, do you know how that bastard is doing, hyung?

Kijung, feeling pleased, mentioned a few things about Cheka’s performance. Leeha looked bewildered as he listened to his story.

Leeha: “… That happened?”

Kijung: Haha, yeah! He cut the throat of the chairman’s most cherished horse, and threw the severed head on his bed where he was sleeping! He’s a total nutcase!

Leeha: “Huh? That…that’s it!”

Kijung: “What? What is it?”

Leeha’s mouth twitched slightly, and he swallowed. At least it was a moment where he could be sure about what type of brawn he was.

“He’s like a mafia guy. A brawn who incorporates a famous scene from the classic movie ‘The Godfather’ into a game!”

Leeha wondered. Was he a cinephile?

“Or is he truly… involved in the mafia in Italy or Russia in reality?”

At least it was clear that he wasn’t the type of brawn who simply resorts to violence but rather a ‘skilled’ brawn.

“And on top of that, wow, within just four days, how much did he accomplish! I wish I could meet him once too. Life would be easier if one could be close with such a person.”

Leeha: “Where crows gather, don’t go as a white egret.”

Kijung: “Huh?”

Leeha: “Nothing, forget it. Anything else? Anything special happened?”

Leeha unconsciously tilted his head and sent a coded message. Kijung’s response was prompt.

Kijung: “Yes! Thank and convey my gratitude to Dragon Lord. He was a bit harsh yesterday, but the excitement was refreshing. You know, after everything was over and I returned to Ezwen, the Paladins were looking at me differently, as if I had been elected as the Pope or something.”

Leeha: Huh? What are you talking about?

Dragon Lord. This is the expression used when Kijung calls Blaugrunn.

“This guy… What is he saying right now…”

Leeha looked at Blaugrunn. The little dragon blinked and looked back at Leeha. Leeha met Blaugrunn after logging in and came straight here. Throughout the journey, Blaugrunn didn’t say a word to Leeha. Kijung: What are you talking about! Ah, it did improve a bit since the second time, maybe because there were Manticores lurking around. It felt a bit welcoming since they didn’t attack me, but well, no one will notice. Ask to send a few of them charging at me next time.

“Blaugrunn-ssi.”

“Yes??”

“Oh, by any chance, did you transform into Ghibrid yesterday?”

“Impossible. You didn’t specifically mention it.”

Leeha’s jaw dropped without realizing it. Leeha: Ki, Kijung- Ahhh?

Kijung: Ca. 『Dinosaur Transformation』 Boom! I clashed with Ghibrid, no, with the dragon! Since it’s the second time, the sensation has improved compared to last time-

Leeha: Kijung… Ahhh?

Kijung: Um, yeah? What is it?

Leeha swallowed nervously. What should he say? Should he say that yesterday’s fight was not with Blaugrunn? But Leeha didn’t need to say anything more. Because Kijung also realized the situation without any words from Leeha. Kijung: Wait… no way. No way… Hyung? Leeha: Kijung…~ I didn’t log in yesterday. Kijung: But still- And so- No, but still- And so- Did you leave a message for Dragon Lord? Leeha: There’s no way… At this moment, Leeha inside Fibiel Palace and Kijung in the square of Ezwen Papacy had the same expression. Kijung: What’s going on! I thought I was calling you Dragon Lord without any doubt and my guild members didn’t call you!

Leeha: Hey, you crazy bastard! Their inner thoughts were exchanged simultaneously. Kijung didn’t really fight the transformed Blaugrunn but one of the real Demon King’s Fragment—Ghibrid! ‘He didn’t really fight with all his might! That idiot! Did he fight with Ghibrid because he fought with Blaugrunn once, with a much looser mindset?’

Kijung: What about the Manticores? What happened to them? Leeha: Why are you asking me after you fought? It wasn’t our Blaugrunn! Kijung: Then, if it was the real Ghibrid—If the real one gathered the Manticores, that son of a—

It was clear how confused Kijung was, to the point that Leeha could tell. Calmly calming down the rambling Kijung, Leeha asked him carefully. Leeha: Slowly, think one by one. How many Manticores were there, the exact location of the battle, and Ghibrid’s condition at that time. Remember the damage you took coming in with the 『Dinosaur Transformation』 skill.

Kijung: Phew… alright. I must be crazy, really. Even in the midst of all that, I made jokes thinking it was Dragon Lord. It gives me goosebumps just thinking about it.

Leeha: And hearing that gives me even more goosebumps.

(To be continued…)
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Kijung was confident that his lips couldn’t be seen by the paladins as he fought against Ghibrid, bantering even as he engaged in a scuffle with it.

Anyone who could imagine such a sight couldn’t help but smile.

“Well, maybe this isn’t such a bad thing after all.”

Ghibrid, the one who had most recently caused Kijung’s death, was known to be ruthless and terrifying, having suffered an attack of unknown origin, as heard from a member of Byulcho.

He recalled the days when he faced Toon. Didn’t it take quite a long time to defeat him?

Leeha: Kijung, you should at least acknowledge one thing. Can such a person be a tank?”

The courage and determination to face an opponent who instilled fear in him, not once but twice or thrice, even daring to jest and engage in bare-handed combat!

“Kek… He seem to have improved.”

“What do you mean?”

“Well, it seems like some weight has been lifted off Kijung’s shoulders… even a little.”

“Huh?”

“Nothing, just talking to myself. Let’s hurry.”

With a chuckle, he moved his steps. Of course, as it was the courtyard of the Royal Palace of Fibiel, he couldn’t move recklessly.

Carefully avoiding hidden traps scattered around, he headed towards the front courtyard where the personnel waiting for him were.

“You still have a face I want to punch.”

“Hey, can’t spit on someone’s face while wearing clothes, but why are you saying that as soon as you see me after ages?”

Luger stood with a frowned expression, carrying luggage, looking relaxed at first glance but to Leeha, he seemed prepared and tense as if he were “organized chaos.”

“Let’s hurry. Do you know how much time I have wasted because of you?”

“Just go in first. Let’s go!”


Kidd also stood with his arms crossed, leaning against the wall at the entrance. Both of them had postures that complemented each other perfectly.

“If we could just enter like that, we would have entered naturally”, muttered Luger, bringing it to a perfect conclusion to his complaints!

Finally, the Three Musketeers reunited. Moreover, it was in front of the Mage’s headquarters in Fibiel where Kaztor, the Dark Elf, resided, and where Fibiel, the chief mage, dwelled at the serene Palace in Fibiel.

“Stop, stop! Please show your permit!”

Despite seeing Luger and Kidd standing in front of the entrance to the West Palace for a while, the guards at the entrance rudely blocked the Three Musketeers. The sharp voice and rough attitude were nothing more than a brief indication of how strict the internal control was at the moment.

“Brown Bess Musketeer Academy – belonging to, first disciple Kidd, along with two others, and a dragon to assist with the investigation. The royal seal is stamped.”

Kidd took out the permit from his bag and presented it. While the document itself was nothing special, it contained enough words to rattle Luger and the others.

“What? ‘First disciple’, who came up with that? We are just ‘two others’ at the end? Without even an introduction?”

“If we’re inheriting the Three Musketeers’ legacy, I should be the number one, shouldn’t I? You damn rascal? Need me to remind you again?”

“Ahem, be quiet.”

Ignoring Luger and Leeha’s grumbling quietly, Kidd waited patiently. After inspecting the permit for a while, the guard returned it to Kidd with a nod.

“You are allowed to investigate Kaztor’s residence and laboratory. Follow me.”

Finally, the massive door opened. There were countless people inside the West Palace, with the most noticeable being those wearing robes of the Mage’s Guild.

“It looks like you hardly find Mage Robes in the Mage’s Guild headquarters. Who are those people in black outfits?”

“Due to the downsizing reform, and also because the Mage’s Guild headquarters were prohibited from use, almost all personnel were expelled, except for essential internal personnel for item concealment locations or deactivation of transparency skills.”

“There’s no way Mage Squad’s members would freely wander around the Mage Squad’s headquarters, the special investigation target.”

There was no way Mage Squad’s members would freely wander around the Mage Squad’s headquarters, the special investigation target.

“Oh, so the people walking around now are-”

“They’re investigators directly appointed by the Chief Justice, the ones who persistently pursued us right after the end of the war.”

“Why did they-”


“…there’s such a thing.”

“Isn’t the Chief Justice a judge? No, in Middle Earth, should we say it’s a judge who is also a prosecutor? Are these investigators the ones who chased us during the war- Ah… Bluebeard?”

Although Luger did not reply to any of the questions, Leeha interpreted this as a signal of agreement. The first user to notice that Bluebeard had awakened was Luger.

“How did you find out about it?”

“Was there no treachery?”

It seemed like a deep investigation had been conducted on Luger regarding these matters.

“Crazy, they’re going all out… Surprisingly, I’ve had anything but a peaceful gaming life, haven’t I?”

The nickname “Reality Itself” was not given for no reason. In fact, Leeha himself had gone through various hardships, so his gaming life was far from peaceful. It was just a different kind of experience altogether. How long had he been climbing up and down the stairs chasing after the NPC『?』 to guide him? Even Leeha, who prided himself on his spatial perception abilities, lost track of where he was going and how many steps he had taken.

“The path… feels strange, doesn’t it?”

“It’s a creepy place.”

This was true for Luger too, especially for those with heightened animal instincts. Although it was clearly a staircase that had just been passed, there were several instances where the length seemed to change, confusing pedestrians. Blaugrunn, who had been silent all this time, spoke up around that time.

“It’s a basic mana trickery. Humans like this kind of thing.”

“Is that so?”

“If you try to see with your eyes, you’ll only be deceived. And now we’re here.”

When Blaugrunn said they had arrived, the NPC, who had been guiding them, turned back with a frown.

“What are you surprised about, human? Do you think you can deceive me with a clumsy mana illusion?”

“No, sir. Then, may the three humans and the dragon enter with your permission. However, please be aware that unauthorized removal of items from the premises is not allowed. I will wait here.”

Where the NPC stopped was in the middle of the staircase. He pointed to the wall and stopped. When the Three Musketeers stood there puzzled, Blaugrunn moved first.

“Leeha-nim? What are you doing, not entering.”

“Wh-where?”


“Where is it? Right here.”

His body swiftly disappeared into the wall.

Without any sense of resistance, the Three Musketeers threw themselves into a different space than before. After passing through the wall, the place they saw was like another paradise.

“It’s spacious! And those patterns over there…”

“It’s certain. Kaztor.”

“There’s no time to make a fuss.”

The giant magic circle drawn on the floor, with two intersecting triangles forming a star shape, was something that should have been forgotten but couldn’t be.

“We surely don’t not know what we are looking for, right?”

“If we find it, it may not remain a secret. Know that whoever conceals it must be willing to die.”

“That’s what I want to say, Luger.”

Though Kaztor’s last research facility was left behind, known as the ‘Poubiel Chief Wizard’s Private Research Facility’ in name only, the trio felt disappointed that there were no significant achievements credited to its location and immediately began their investigation.

In the expansive research facility, there were numerous items scattered without order, from various experimental tools to all kinds of books, enough to frustrate the searchers, yet the trio searched meticulously, determined not to miss a thing.

“It seems like there are no writings in the Dark Elf language at least.”

After flipping through one book swiftly, Leeha placed it back on the shelf before moving on, causing a commotion behind him.

“This is the royal palace of Durbiel, after all. They wouldn’t have done something so foolish.”

“He learned how to maintain the polymorph so flawlessly from the Gorilla Paleos. After infiltrating among humans with a firm determination to play the part perfectly, would he really engage in such behavior?”

“… Attacking for just saying one word, see these guys. I just said it!”

As if waiting to seize an opportunity to attack, Kidd and Luger caught on to Leeha’s words and went on.

Blaugrunn watched the three with a subtle smile playing on his lips.

“It seems like you might understand what friendship feels like. It’s not a common emotion among dragons.”

“W- What are you suddenly talking about?”

“Oh, nothing. Just a feeling I got from watching you and those humans. That’s all.”

“What- Ridiculous comments, and friendship my foot! Blaugrunn, please hurry and find it. It might look different from an ordinary book if it’s something like ‘Arcane Sniper Journal.'”

“Understood, kek.”

Blaugrunn didn’t even spare a glance at Kaztor’s experimental tools. Knowing his design to be ‘a curious dragon’, Leeha found this attitude even more intriguing.

“Isn’t it natural? They said Kaztor was a genius Dark Elf in manipulating mana. Then why was he ‘posing as the Chief Wizard’ here? Or did the research he was conducting here while disguised as Rotzak truly hold any significance? With everything being exposed? If you think that way, there’s a high possibility that everything they were researching here was just a show. Merely pretending to research known magic while setting up the facility?”

For a curious dragon like Blaugrunn, it would have been a magic long finished.

“Perhaps if Blaugrunn feels the slightest bit of charm, that would be more remarkable.”

The skill of Kaztor must have been at an adult-level dragon or above, lucky that such a thing didn’t happen. Kaztor was a prudent mage as Kidd had mentioned, refraining from engaging in adventurous attempts such as dabbling in new magical research when there was a possibility of someone entering or guests coming to the laboratory in his absence.

After over two hours of relentless searching by the three individuals and the dragon, they couldn’t find any results. Even when they changed their search areas and did cross-checks, wondering if they had missed something, it was the same result.

“Phew… It would’ve been easier if the laboratory was straightforward to find. The ‘disguised laboratory’ was much more difficult to locate.”

“I agree. There is nothing that seems like an ancient scroll here.”

“Um… Did they take it?”

“No way. Right after the incident, this place was sealed off by everyone”, Kidd nodded.

Luger looked at Kidd in disbelief.

“You guys mentioned that you lost track of that bastard while fighting, and he might have sneaked in here…”

“No, the truth is… isn’t there a ‘messenger’? Literally, right after the incident, this place was sealed in the name of the king. Upon verifying the seal, the headmaster and I chased after Ha Leeha and shot bullets into him.”

“Oh, that makes sense.”

The time between Kaztor exploding the chunk of magic and fleeing wasn’t long. While the party pursued, the heroes from the Second Human-Demon War appeared and bought some time, but they still didn’t have much freedom.

Amidst this, while Kidd was handling the scene of the incident, he also obtained the renewal of the seal on the Chief Mage’s Research Institute from the king. Meanwhile, Browless, who came chasing after him with Ha Leeha, was also there.

“Well done. It’s not just a mere 『shot』 gun.”

As Kidd gazed at Ha Leeha with an admiring expression, Ha Leeha looked at him strangely.

While the Three Musketeers were pondering dejectedly, Blaugrunn began pulling out dozens of books using magic.

“B-Blaugrunn, what are you doing?”

“Huh? We’ve visually confirmed everything, but we need to check the content now.”

“Content? Didn’t we check the content so far?”

“Wh-what are you talking about?”

Blaugrunn smirked. Ha Leeha and Kidd couldn’t understand what Blaugrunn was doing, but Luger was different.

“Damn it! Was even that a disguise? You fools! How did you forget how they got in here?”

“Oops… Uh-oh?”

“Oh no! Did you alter the appearance and content of the books?”

Ha Leeha and Kidd clapped in realization, while Blaugrunn looked bewildered instead.

(To be continued.)
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“Hey, Leeha! Don’t tell me you’ve been just reading books without knowing about this too?”

“Oh, no. It’s just that… it didn’t come up until now…”

“If I weren’t here, we would’ve been in big trouble.”

“Yeah, that’s right. Blaugrunn is truly the best.”

With a thumbs-up gesture, Leeha praised Blaugrunn. Straining his neck, he pulled out a total of twenty-two books.

“These are items that sense the flow of mana. I will unlock them now.”

With Blaugrunn present, the tasks that would have required all sorts of preparations, from mana detection items to items for uncovering secret documents, were swiftly carried out—!

As the intense turquoise light slowly faded, the hands of the three turned towards one place.

The characters on the covers of the other books were unreadable, but it was evident that they were written in ‘Dark Elf language’.

Having seen such books numerous times at Kaztor’s other research facilities, what mattered most to the three was not that.

Among the unreadable books written in Dark Elf language, there was one with a distinguishable gun drawing!

“《Journal》!”

『Finding the Lost Records of Dark Elves』

Contents: The recovery and return of Dark Elf data including the journals of the “Arcane Sniper” were intuitively recognized by the trio.

With all the data collected from Kaztor’s research facilities and the data found here, they believed they could finally satisfy the contents of this quest.

“This is… what the ‘Arcane Sniper’ personally left behind…”

“A journal, huh?”

“Incredible! Incredible! Leeha, quickly, quickly!”

Blaugrunn’s eyes also sparkled brightly. Leeha, Kidd, and Luger mutually locked eyes, their usual desire to selfishly monopolize even the slightest bit of information long gone.


Finally facing the information on what might possibly be the 『2nd Advancement Job』 of the strongest in Midearth, the three came to a united decision for the first time.

“Right, then. Let’s open it.”

“Tsk, be careful not to wrinkle the pages of the book, you savage! Handle it delicately!”

“Luger, your hand – that, hand! Hand! You’re wrinkling the second page!”

Of course, it was only natural that as soon as they turned the first page, Luger would have to grimace in frustration.

“My name is Max Hescok. A poor hunter.”

“No, rather, the successor to a cursed profession, I don’t know how many times.”

Just two lines in the preface on the first page. Yet, Luger’s eyes reddened as he read the two lines he was about to read.

“Hes…cok? It’s you…”

“What, what’s wrong? Why?”

“You, you shit-”

“What the hell is going on!”

Luger suddenly lunged at Leeha.

Confused, Leeha tried to push Luger away, but he was no match for Luger charging like a wild animal.

If it weren’t for Kidd quickly stepping in and striking Luger’s collarbone with his palm to cut off his breath, Luger seemed like he really would have launched a serious attack towards Leeha.

“K-Kidd! Do you know- k-know what’s going on?!”

“Why are you suddenly acting like this? This is the royal palace.”

“It’s Hescok, Hescok!”

“What do you mean by that?”

Kidd replied calmly, but it was truly frustrating for Leeha. Why was Luger causing such a scene because of Hescok?


“What’s with this Hescok nonsense?”

“… You don’t know? The guy who is supposed to inherit 『Bullseye』?”

“What? Is he like a descendant of 『Bullseye』 before Elizabeth?”

As Leeha furrowed his brows, Luger and Kidd looked genuinely bewildered.

Kidd put on his hat and let out a sigh, and Luger’s face became one unsure whether to laugh or cry.

“Absurd. How can he not even know the full name of a figure considered to be his master? The Elizabeth Hescok of 『Bullseye』 one of the three musketeers of the previous generation.”

“What, what? Wait a minute! That doesn’t make sense! Originally, she was called Miss Elizabeth! Isn’t Hescok a code name? I have that level of common knowledge, you know?”

Miss Elizabeth was called Mrs. Brown when she married Brown!

The words he wanted to say were stuck in her throat. As Leeha hesitated, Kidd nodded with determination.

“It may be difficult to understand for those unfamiliar with Eastern culture. The ‘Miss’ at that time was merely an expression of respect. Um… it would be best to understand it as closer to the meaning of ‘Beautiful Elizabeth’.”

“What on earth- no… but- that…”

“Elizabeth’s full name is ‘Elizabeth Hescok’, and the reason Luger got excited may be because the surname matches a certain Max Hescok mentioned in this book… Luger, you are also a foolish person.”

“What?”

“Heir only to the ‘Bullseye’, not of Elizabeth’s lineage. Moreover, there is no evidence that Max Hescok and Elizabeth share the same lineage. In fact, this Max explicitly states that he does not follow any lineage.”

“Regardless of curse or luck. This accursed profession does not follow bloodlines. In my case, it did follow the bloodline. Nonetheless.”

“But still, wouldn’t this side be inherited somehow?”

“Hmm. Let’s see first.”

“When it is clearly revealed, it will be when I die. No, it will be when I disappear. From the beginning, I should not have picked it up. Even if I regret it now, it’s too late. But hunters can’t resist picking it up. Oh, all the cursed things in this world are beautiful.”

With an atmosphere of antiquity in their writings, the three of them once again became serious.

Blaugrunn also looked tense as he carefully read the letter.


“Is the condition for inheriting Arcane Sniper position an item?”

“The possibility is high.”

Max Hescok ‘picked something up’. Something that even a ‘hunter’ couldn’t resist picking up.

While Leeha and Kidd did not mention specifically what item it was, they knew.

A rifle.

Even with Max Hescok regretting it so, it was clearly a gun that he couldn’t resist not picking up.

“They differentiated between death and annihilation. What could that mean?”

“And one more thing, it’s also intriguing how Max, a human who has not experienced either death or annihilation, knew about it.”

Blaugrunn responded to Luger’s muttering. Leeha was concerned that Luger might attack with his rifle if the teenager used informal speech, but such an incident did not occur. No matter how daring Luger was, he would never leap at a dragon with just his bare body.

What Leeha and Blaugrunn were curious about, and what Luger mumbled, was written on the next page.

『I grew up as an orphan until I was 27. Well, at least that’s what I remembered. It wasn’t until I turned 27 that I found out the fact that I had a father, and that I had even lived with him until I was 27.

If it weren’t for my father’s journal, if I hadn’t found it and read it, I would have never known that I had a father.』

『The reason why Arcane Sniper would remain a legend forever. The portrait drawn in my father’s journal, the young me smiling brightly in that portrait, and the young version of my father holding a gun that I now held in my hand; if it weren’t for those, I would have never known the truth forever.』

『Arcane Sniper erases the user. In everyone’s memory.』

『No one in our village remembered my father. Not even my two closest friends.』

“Erase…?

“It seems to mean erasure of memory.”

“It’s not a memory erasure spell, right? It exists, doesn’t it? Considering what Rotzak, no, Kaztor used, it was definitely a kind of memory manipulation spell. So, Blaugrunn?”

Leeha hurriedly asked Blaugrunn following Kidd and Luger.

However, Blaugrunn just stood there with a blank expression for a moment.

“Blaugrunn?”

“No, this is… magic related to memory is of the highest class. Even using it on one person requires tremendous concentration and is unstable. But – if it’s as written in this journal, it seems like ‘simultaneously removing memories from all involved’… It’s impossible! Even if it were the Lord, would it be possible? No, I think it’s impossible. If that were possible, then the Chromatic Dragons would have…

“Hmm… I guess you’re right. They must be getting along well with the Metal Dragons.”

If widespread memory manipulation or memory erasure were possible, there would never have been wars in this world.

That was what Blaugrunn was trying to convey.

Not to mention complete memory deletion that regresses someone to infancy, manipulating or erasing ‘memories about specific events’ is even more challenging.

Of course, whether difficult or not, it wasn’t a major issue for the three of them.

“The problem is that Arcane Sniper is disappearing!”

“Death? It’s clearly different from death. If I were to become Arcane Sniper…”

“How would that apply to the users? They went through all the trouble of a second job change, would they lose their second job? What the…! How would that apply to themselves?

Would their second job status be reversed to Musketeer and lose out? It was actually fortunate to think of it that way.

In a way, it’s to maintain the balance of Middle Earth that the strongest profession with a high risk of balance collapse imposes ammunition restrictions as a penalty. However, maybe… it might be the most useless for memories.

For a user who won’t even die, what’s the point of assassinating them a few times?

In the end, they’ll just resurrect.

But if you think it’s more than that- Leeha slowly organized his thoughts.

“How far, how much can we consider? Think, think, Leeha.”

The same was true for Kidd and Luger. Upon the first death, the loss of memory also occurs simultaneously. Leeha can accept that. Ample time will be given before it disappears. Also, Leeha believed he could control the loss of memory.”

“Dammit, my head might explode. Despite thinking that my head is dangerous, my instincts are shouting that I must pick it up as soon as I see it.”

All three of them knew that they only had the luxury of contemplating now.

If the opportunity to become Arcane Sniper came, it would already be too late.

At that moment, they would have to act immediately based on all the contemplations they had made so far.

『Rapidfire』, 『Pierce』, and 『Bullseye』.

The new generation’s three musketeers, who are not easy opponents but are both best friends and fierce rivals, are the ones who understand this more than anyone else.

『Luckily, we obtained new information in the Dark Elf forest. The God’s Sword. If that exists, then he—』 “Huh?”

“What’s wrong?”

“It got cut off.”

“Next page! Next page!”

『He tried to deceive me. He pretended to be friendly and reasonable, but he was clearly not letting his guard down. An interconnected fate? The one who only plans to destroy me and take my soul is quite a talker.』

Who exhaled first?

At least two or more people expelled their breath simultaneously.

The diary suddenly created a tense situation, making it impossible for the reader to look away.

“It feels like someone is watching us, doesn’t it?”

“Does a figure like Arcane Sniper really exist?”

“If he can blow away anything, anyone, anywhere with a single shot, doesn’t that make him Arcane Bullet?”

However, the contents of the diary were clear. Max Hescok was in a position where he was being watched or receiving instructions from someone.

“By the way, the term ‘God’s Sword’ appeared again.”

“Well, I’ve seen it in the Dark Elf forest and at Kaztor’s research facility.”

“Surely, the item must be significant. Could that be the same sword from the unfortunate incident in Minis…”

“Rainbow Knight Lark? Pfft, Luger, do you know that guy too?”

“Is there anyone who doesn’t know the guy who got the short end of the stick? Damn, if it wasn’t for Minis, he would have been crushed.”

Listening to Luger cursing at Lark, Leeha watched with amusement. They were well aware that their personalities did not match, but imagining the scene where the two of them met and clashed filled him with a strange sense of satisfaction.

(To be continued… )
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“Indeed, his grace and dignity are remarkable.”

“Yeah. At this point, he seems to have the highest possibility. He had the sword that even Bluebeard and dragons recognized. Even if we underestimate him, he’s at a legendary level. If not”,

Divine level.

If it truly was a divine-level sword, the probability of it being the ‘God’s Sword’ was high. However, what exactly was the ‘God’s Sword’?

Until that problem was properly solved, it was not something to be stated recklessly.

Because it’s Middle Earth, you know.”

As the three fell into contemplation once again, Blaugrunn’s hand had flipped through the last pages of the book.

“It’s the end.”

By now, a considerable number of the pages were blank.

“There doesn’t seem to be much information with just this.”

“Since there must be a lot of information in the Dark Elves’ records, there might be something he, as their chieftain, can offer.”

“Hmm, do we need to collaborate with that side as well?”

In reality, there are still many books to go through.

However, the writings were unreadable to Leeha, Kidd, and Luger.

They would have to cross the borderless land and make their way to the Dark Elf forest to seek interpretation there.

“Um, Leeha-nim!?”

“Yes?”

“Here! On the last page-”

Blaugrunn pointed to the final page. The gazes of the three once again focused on it.


『I can no longer write. But what about this? Can these memories be erased? I seek the power of God to avoid the power of the Arcane Bullet. I hope the curse of being Arcane Sniper will be broken from me, but knowing it is unlikely, I am deeply saddened.

So there is only one thing I can prepare for: to pass this journal on to the future Arcane Sniper.

May you not make the same mistake as I did.

And my son, carlos, please remember your father.

And this… it’s a magic mark.』

Below the words, there was a very small magic circle drawn that even Leeha, Kidd, and Luger might have missed if Blaugrunn hadn’t pointed it out.

“Wants to avoid the power of the Arcane Bullet? Then, to avoid the eyes of the unknown ‘watcher’ from earlier-”

“It would be a Tale of barely hiding.”

“Hong, still, that guy seems to be quite quick-witted. Well, perhaps that’s why he became the Arcane Sniper.”

The three immediately drew their weapons.

Inserting magazines, pulling triggers, they swiftly assumed a combat-ready posture, which caught Blaugrunn off guard.

“Ha Leeha, what are you doing?”

“What am I doing? I am preparing just in case, as we do not know what might happen.”

“This, this… are you going to trigger it?”

“Huh? Why are you speaking such obvious nonsense? Haha. Blaugrunn, just in case, cast your spell and step aside.”

“What kind of magic is this?”

“You used the power of God to cast it, and you think it might be some kind of trap? Hurry, step aside, we have no time.”

Leeha took Blaugrunn and moved him to the side.

Although treated like a toy, Blaugrunn did not resist.

Knowing Leeha’s nature well, the partner cautiously began casting the magic.


“Are you ready?”

Leeha clenched the Black Bass. with Kidd holding Crimson Geckos and Luger holding Cobalt Blue Python by his side.

“All we need is for you to do well.”

“Kidd made a good point for the first time in a while. Also, stop pretending to be a leader all the time. Like I said before, I am the first to become one of the Three Musketeers-”

“Let’s go!”

Ignoring Luger’s words, Leeha clicked on the magic circle.

“Ah?!”

『Le-』

That

“My, my body-”

At that moment, a brilliant light engulfed the three.

“Ha, Leeha! Leeha!”

Blaugrunn’s voice faintly reached Leeha, but he could not look at that place. Surrounded by a sensation of everything melting and blurring, his field of vision gradually darkened.

“Damn, holy magic – was it a trap here too…”, Leeha muttered, once again getting annoyed by the malicious(?) actions of Middle Earth.

=Tock, how long are you going to pretend to sleep, friend?

Hearing a grating voice that made his whole body feel unpleasant, he slowly opened his eyes. His groggy body seemed unresponsive as if it didn’t want to move as he wished.

“What is this?”

It was quite dark around him. The speed of his eyelids opening seemed delayed compared to his thoughts. Suddenly, he jerked his body up.

“Huh? My body-”

But that action was not what he intended. It was the feeling of his body being forced to rise! What’s more surprising was that it wasn’t just that.


“Noisy, Zamiel. It’s not pretending to sleep, I’ve actually fallen asleep. It seems like quite a tired journey.”

“What’s with this voice?”

Leeha clearly felt a muffled sensation in his mouth. However, neither the action of mumbling nor the voice coming from inside was his own intention, nor was it his own. Only then did he realize. From the scenery around him to the ground beneath his feet, everything had changed.

“This – is not my body, right? Then when I touched that journal earlier, was it activated by a magic?”

Was it a magic that forcibly transferred memories? Maybe Max Hescok used a kind of memory recording magic that saved from a specific part to play to a specific part?

He wanted to look around, but it wasn’t as he wished. Everything he saw, heard, said, and did was only progressing through the setting of a character named “Max Hescok.”

It was quite intriguing.

“Wow, really. It feels like watching a movie, not just playing a game. It’s an incredibly realistic first-person movie.”

At the same time, he also pondered about the whereabouts of the two people.

Kidd and Luger. Are they watching and listening to the same things as him?

“Kidd! Luger!”

He tried to call out to them, but it didn’t happen as he wanted.

“Max Hescok’s mouth didn’t move at all, and there was no reverberation in his voice either.”

“Kreok.”

Instantly, max’s body wavered. Leeha felt a throbbing sensation in his own head as well.

“Is this suddenly a migraine?) It was a pain on a different level from the sickness, dizziness, or headache such as cold or flu. He had adjusted the synchronization rate to 100%, but even when reproducing someone else’s memory, did he feel the pain the same way? =Kreuk…, it’s been over three months already. At least praise my self-control. But now, it seems like it’s time to use it.= “Shut up, Zamiel. I won’t shoot the martian.”

=If you don’t shoot, your body will disintegrate.= “Hah, ridiculous. Are you saying that my body will return to normal if I shoot? You should know better that it’s not going to happen.”

=Oh, is this my fault? I didn’t force anyone on that day! The one holding that could have been Max, not you, maybe Rhonda Brown, or John Holiday! Weren’t you the most curious one among the three? Isn’t that right?= Although the appearance wasn’t visible, the voice of the entity called “Zamiel” was also audible to Leeha. And at the moment when he mentioned the names of the two people, Leeha could clearly feel the emotional change in ‘Max Hescok.’

“Shut up!”

It was a complete liveliness beyond anger. The headache felt like his eyes were about to pop out, as if the temples were being pierced and penetrated on both sides, yet amidst this, max Hescok’s movements were as fast as lightning. Suddenly moving, what he grabbed with a swoop was something long. Because his movement was perfectly in sync with Leeha’s body, Leeha could also figure it out.

“It’s a gun.”

He picked up the gun leaning against the tree and loaded the bullet. Was the magazine already inserted? Leeha also felt the trigger being pulled. The feeling of the bullet being chambered with a clack was also evident. The naturally flowing series of actions was so smooth that even Leeha was impressed. It was evident that handling something as difficult as the gun with its weight distribution, awkwardly long shape, and the sense of touch in hand could be so skillfully done! Before Leeha’s admiration could finish, max had already finished loading.

“I must have warned you before. If you mention those names again… Zamiel, I won’t let you off either.”

=I’m sorry. Truly. I mean it= The only regret to both Max and Leeha, who were perfectly synchronized, was that the existence called “Zamiel” was not visible.

‘Tsk, I wanted to see you. Probably that Zamiel being mentioned in the journal is…something like surveillance?’

Did Max accept Zamiel’s sincere apology? As the simmering anger subsided, when Leeha could also feel it, max released the aim, and at that moment, the rifle that Max held in his eyes became fully visible to Leeha. At that moment, any regrets about not seeing Zamiel vanished completely. What Leeha saw in his eyes. If Luger had been in that position, he would have surely lunged at Leeha once again.

“Oh, ooooh, woah, what’s this? A gun?!”

The barrel of the rifle that Max Hescok was holding was unusually long.

The gun barrel that seemed to suck in even the moonlight was definitely something Leeha had seen before.

“Miss Elizabeth… No, that thing Elizabeth Hescok was holding!”

Was it a matter of lineage?

However, Leeha already knew that allegiance did not follow bloodline.

Above all, elizabeth was not the Arcane Sniper.

“How can Elizabeth’s gun- no, the fact that Elizabeth’s gun is the Arcane Sniper?”

Despite his mind being in chaos, Leeha soon calmly organized the situation. It couldn’t be true.

As the successor of 『Accuracy』, wasn’t he the one who knew the most among the new generation three musketeers?

“Yeah, it can’t be true. It’s clearly Kyle who’s Arcane Sniper. So how… could Elizabeth use the shooter’s rifle? Because of the bloodline? Because she shares the same lineage as Max Hescok, she can use the rifle? No, that’s absurd!”

In that case, in Middle Earth, only those with Hescok lineage could become Arcane Sniper.

If that were the case, wouldn’t it mean that users couldn’t become Arcane Sniper in the first place?

In other words, it was a valid assumption that it couldn’t be true.

“Fascinating. Just like Zamiel said, and when I look at the diary of the Arcane Sniper from earlier, it’s clear that this rifle is an item for transitioning into the shooter.”

Since Leeha could also understand Zamiel’s perspective from Max’s point of view, he clearly remembered it.

Three people.

Rhonda Brown, John Holiday, and Max Hescok.

Among the three, the curious Max Hescok “grabbed this gun.”

“So he’s enduring all this pain… that’s how he put it. Probably won’t be wrong up to this point.”

Leeha began to feel curious about Elizabeth and Kyle’s relationship once again. Can someone who is not a Arcane Sniper use the rifle of the Arcane Sniper?

“Wow, ridiculous. But if it was that kind of gun, you should’ve told me earlier! It was way better than Black Bass! No, no, you should’ve just pretended not to know when learning Curv Shot!”

Did they then transition into being Arcane Sniper?

As Leeha was indulging in whimsical imaginations, max Hescok’s body was already moving somewhere, cutting across the surroundings.

The scenery around him was both familiar and unfamiliar to Leeha.

= As if calling it a Dark Elf forest would make it any better.=

“I knew you were trembling in your voice.”

Only now did Leeha realize it. The Dark Elf forest!

“Oh, I see. The terrain around has changed a bit… but are they still hiding and living here? But this guy Max has been with this person called Zamiel for a long time.”

(To be continued…)
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The journal entry of Arcane Sniper, he must have become Arcane Sniper at around the age of 27.

Max’s voice, audible to Leeha, was that of someone in their late thirties, so at least 5 to 10 years must have passed.

“Who would tremble! Do you think there is a presence that would make me tremble?”

“There shouldn’t be. There won’t be anything stronger than you, the source of Arcane Bullet, in this world.”

The source of Arcane Bullet?

Is that what Zamiel is, the source of Arcane Bullet?

“The source of Arcane Bullet? Wait a minute. According to the legend passed down among the Dark Elves…”

Long ago, when God and the Arcane Bullet made a bet, the power that the Arcane Bullet used was none other than 『Arcane Bullet』.

It was a device used to bind the magical power of God so that they could never descend to the mortal realm again, and to do so, 『Arcane Bullet』 had to possess a power strong enough to turn even God himself into puppet.

In other words, 『Arcane Bullet』 should be seen as the most powerful creation the Arcane Bullet made, as the magic itself.

“Huh? What? Then if we calculate logically, is Zamiel not Arcane Bullet? No, is it the name of the 『Arcane Bullet』 created by the Arcane Bullet?”

Whatever it was, one thing was certain: it was not just a simple observer.

“Well, even if you go there, max, there won’t be what you want.”

“How do you know what I want?”

Max’s movements, which were swift, slowed down slightly. With Leeha inside Max, he could feel it properly.

The reason for the slowed movements was tension.

Max was anxious that Zamiel might catch onto his thoughts.

“The seventh power that God couldn’t use. The object that embodies it, that’s what you’re looking for. Do you think fools like Dark Elves would know about that?”

“I don’t know what you’re talking about”, max clenched his voice.


Though the words that came out of Leeha’s mouth were biting, he could at least feel one thing clearly.

“Max-ssi! You really can’t act!”

It was clearly a lie to anyone. Zamiel’s laughter echoed wildly in the dark forest.

“If that object exists, it might be able to drive me away, right? Huh? Well, okay, I can’t stop you anyway. But you’ve already taken five steps. Do you think you can finish with just one step to get what you want? You should at least take one step within a week to alleviate the pain!”

“I don’t know about that.”

“Hehe, if you take just two steps, you’re done! I’ll take your soul! Remember that clearly! Shwaaahhh!”

In an instant, something came hurtling towards Leeha.

=Now, even those of you watching, listen.=

“Ahhhhhh——!”

That was the last straw. When faced with the bizarre face, Leeha’s vision darkened.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Ha Leeha-nim!”

Blaugrunn shook Leeha to wake him up.

“Cough, cough, cough.”

“Haah, haah.”

“Ugh- What’s happening, what’s going on…?”

The three musketeers all stood up simultaneously, gripping their weapons tightly. However, the surroundings were nothing but Fibiel Palace, the Mage Squad’s Research Lab.

“What happened? Are you okay? We were shocked when you suddenly collapsed!”

“I collapsed?”

“Yes! What kind of magic was that?”

“Hmm, magic. Probably…”


“Memory replay. It was memory replay, dragon.”

Kidd replied calmly to Blaugrunn. But from the way he nervously took off his hat, it was evident that he was also quite tense. Luger was still restlessly looking around. Leeha confirmed while observing their reactions. It wasn’t just him who had synced with Max’s actions. They must have all experienced everything about ‘Max Hescok’ that they saw, heard, and felt.

‘Even the face of Zamiel in the end.’

Trembling, Leeha shook. It seemed as if he was quite shocked, like being startled in a horror movie.

“Damn! I wasn’t even surprised to see Uncanny. Ah, maybe that’s why I’m okay.”

Watching the contemplative faces of Kidd and Luger, Leeha could speculate that his level of Middle Earth’s resistance might have played a role.

“But did they replay memories from the past? How could that guy, Zamiel, recognize us?”

“I don’t know. Whether he saw us or it was just part of the setting. However, if he is considered as the source of 『Arcane Bullet』… it’s entirely possible.”

“Is it enough?”

When Leeha and Luger asked, Kidd nodded.

“Just think of Zamiel as an NPC, capable of surpassing all limitations set within Middle Earth. Arcane Bullet, which can hit us no matter where we hide. The source of Arcane Bullet, Zamiel, discovered us beyond time and space.”

Listening to Kidd’s response, Leeha was able to roughly understand the situation.

“If there’s something in Middle Earth that you don’t understand, think of it as a ‘game’. It was something Kidd had said before, and indeed, it was the most effective way Kidd could handle it. After organizing his thoughts for a moment, the first thing Leeha spoke was this, “And well, there’s no need to hide it, everyone probably understood it, but still, about the ‘limit of footsteps’…”

“If you shoot more than seven rounds, it’s considered that the user will ‘disappear’.”

“Hm, isn’t it just about shooting up to six rounds and enduring?”

“Luger, did you just see the same memory as me? If you don’t use Arcane Bullet for a certain period of time…”

“There seems to be a penalty. A tremendous headache. It would probably make gameplay impossible for the user, right?”

As pale as Kyle, who had. Even though Leeha didn’t explicitly mention, it was the perfect information to firmly confirm the assumption that ‘Arcane Sniper’ was Kyle.

“So, how are you going to explain that gun now?”

“What, what??”


However, what still remained incomprehensible was the true nature of the rifle.

“The rifle used by Max Hescok were similar to the ones used by Elizabeth. You bastard, what story did you hear from Elizabeth alone?”

“No, no! I didn’t know either! Really, I swear! I swear!”

“You must be aware to some extent that those words are true, Luger.”

“What? Kidd, did you know about this?”

Kidd stopped Luger, who was about to rush toward Leeha again. Kidd brought out a piece of paper from somewhere and started writing down people’s names. Max Hescok

Rhonda Brown

John Holiday

“Do you remember?”

“Of course I remember. Maybe it was Zamiel? He pointed a gun at those three people… or created some similar situation.”

“According to Zamiel, ‘Max Hescok, the most curious one, picked up the gun and inherited the power of Arcane Sniper.'”

Following Kidd’s question, Leeha and Luger answered in turn.

“Hmm. In that case, how about this perspective?”Kidd nodded confidently like the teacher who had given him the correct answers, and beside them, he wrote down more names.

Max Hescok / “Elizabeth”

Hescok Ronde Brown / Kana Brown

John Holiday / Liss “Browless”

Holiday Luger chased after the names with his tongue as Kidd hinted at something.

However, Luger could only look puzzled.

“No way.”

“That’s right. This is the full name of the trio from the older generation. Headmaster Browless prefers to use a middle name as a nickname.”

“What… Really? I didn’t know that? Earlier, you said Elizabeth was not a last name but Brown is?”

“Luger, did you know?”

“Of course.”

“These people? They knew but didn’t tell me!”

As Kidd rambled on, he extended his index finger to his lips, implying that it was not that they didn’t tell him, but that he didn’t make an effort to figure it out.

“What’s important is not that. What does the Trio mean, and what does the long-standing connection of these three people signify? In other words, the Trio does not simply refer to our generation and the one above.”

“Uh… you mean-”

“That’s right. Right now, it’s in Elizabeth’s hands. However, we should consider that there is a high possibility that Elizabeth cannot wield Arcane Bullet. If that were the case, there would have been signs. But throughout my time learning from Brown, there were no peculiar signs from her.”

“Um? Luger? What did you learn?”

“It’s a secret! Anyway! If even those three who are close to the ‘ancestors’ have separate attributes like 『Penetrate』, 『Pierce』, and 『Hit』!”

Honeycomb.

Luger swallowed his saliva before finishing his sentence.

It was the action of someone fully aware of the weight of their impending words.

“If one were to be a Arcane Sniper, there must be some connection with the three attributes, right? Simply put, it’s probably the sum of these three attributes, allowing the use of everything and even gaining the power of Zamiel along with penalties!”

“… That’s right. That is the essence of being a ‘Arcane Sniper’…”

The three fell silent for a moment. They still did not have a precise understanding of what Arcane Bullet was or what the power of the Seven Shots meant.

However, they could anticipate the extent of the combined power of the three.

“So… from a point 51 meters away… Luger can shoot 96 rounds in 2 seconds with his piercing shots, right? If he mixes in shotgun-like rounds, how many shots would that be? Around 1,000 shots?”

Hence, Kidd could not help but chuckle.

“It’s not like using cheat codes in a game…”

There were three people starting to worry about whether the game “Middle Earth” would disappear.

These three people delayed time for a moment in imagining a brief moment of happiness (?).

Then, they came back to reality.

“So, we need to check.”

“Yeah. We should go check.”

“Go? Where should we- Oh, right. We should go. To that place we couldn’t visit in our ‘dreams’, in the end.”

Is the “Arcane Sniper” really that amazing? That remains to be seen.

If so, why did Max Hescok struggle so much and suffer so much?

They already knew through indirect experience that there is no pink future.

“Jamill said it was the power of God. He didn’t clearly confirm it was ‘the sword.'”

“Come to think of it, this is Middle Earth. There shouldn’t be a 『sword』 here. No one has ever said what it is.”

“If it changes shape depending on the user… then the power of God could also be a variable. If there is no pink future? What if Jamill’s penalty is hindering the pink future? Then erase it!”

The fact that all three people had similar thoughts was simply a matter of nature. And what they all decided to seek next was united by what they needed to find.

“The power of God.”

Kidd immediately reported to the guard.

“I have found books related to Kaztor. I request permission to bring them out for investigation.”

Kidd’s request was promptly reported. It took about a day in Middle Earth time for approval to be granted for the books to be moved to the Dark Elf Forest and for all translated content to be retrieved.

The three musketeers, after that, each prepared and agreed to meet again after a short break.

The next destination is the Dark Elf Forest.

“Whew… it’s almost time for our appointment.”

Stretching, he gathered information from community sites. Opinions on the selection of the Azwun Pope were still the most heated, but there were quite a few stories related to Romero and discussions about exorcism as well.

Especially among the users near the new continent 『Divine Staff』, the name “Ghibrid” was starting to be mentioned.

It was inevitable.

During the Conclave period, all Cardinals were not allowed to leave the Ezwen Papacy, except for one exception: Master Kay, a Cardinal and Holy Knight, because he was the Cardinal of exorcism.

(To be continued…)
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“Hehe, Kijung. Are you planning to take over something big at this rate? I was the one who saved both your shield and sword… Why don’t you ask for an Ezwen glove for me?”

With a chuckle, Leeha entertained himself with a cheerful imagination. He knew that Kijung would likely come back loaded with all sorts of things, so it didn’t matter to him even if he returned empty-handed. If it weren’t for Kijung, the Earth of the Middle Realm wouldn’t have started its journey, so Leeha just kept an awkward smile on his face.

“If it’s more fortunate amid misfortune, does that mean Ghibrid has yet to appear since that day? They were also gathering Manticores, right? What are they preparing for exactly? Did they find it hard to face the Holy Knight with just thirty Manticores? Or… was it because they were lacking to sweep them away…? Are they gathering more Manticores to launch an attack on Juma City? But why isn’t Bluebeard participating in all this? Chiyou?”

The fact that there was still no contact from Prea was a source of unease for Leeha. Although getting information from that side would be the best option, he also had to consider the possibility of Prea playing a role as a ‘double agent.’

“Well, if you’re going to do it, then just do it! Whose side is the Spirit of Order on right now? Keke.”

Of course, the likelihood of that happening was significantly low. As long as Leeha’s actions in the Dark Forest remained, the Spirit of Order with white eyes was essentially in a state akin to being Leeha’s servant or slave.

“For now, let’s wait for the results of the Conclave… and clear the quest in the Dark Elf Forest. The rest can come afterwards.”

Just one day in the time of the Middle Earth, the Conclave would begin. The outcome of the vote there would determine everything from now on.

According to the text message sent by Kijung to Leeha before logging out, Romero’s chances of winning had surpassed eighty percent.

“The skillful maneuvers of Fibiel were great, but it seems that Cheka’s substantial threats played a bigger role.”

Cheka, who caused a stir in Ezwen like a mafia, focused not only on withdrawing the NPC supporters of Tusculani but also on uncovering the weaknesses of Tusculani, eventually succeeding in politically isolating him.

“Exploiting prejudices through negative means… Remarkable. Well, it’s reasonable to assume that there could be such a character setting for an evil NPC, but uncovering it in just nine days. How difficult would that have been? While a sharp-witted user could make guesses, practically uncovering and revealing it to deliver a blow is not something anyone can do easily. Especially when the NPCs, gearing up for the unprecedented event of Pope Elections, was watching every move.”

“But each time Cheka achieves massive success… it’s irritating that it’s Lark who brings him out. Ugh!”

Is it possible that the Rainbow Sword that Lark holds is the God’s Deity? However, after reading 『Arcane Sniper’s Diary』, Leeha’s belief in that idea had somewhat diminished. While the possibility of it being the God’s Deity still remained, the ‘power of God’ was more likely to manifest in a different way. Then what is that sword? Bahamut, the Platinum Dragon, seemed to recognize it… Does it have something to do with dragons?”

Leeha ruminated, but there was no clear answer in sight. The answer would always lie over there, in Middle Earth.

“Good. Let’s go.”

With determination, Leeha immediately logged into the Middle Earth. As always, many familiar voices greeted his connection.

Listening to two familiar voices mixed with curses and urgency, Leeha teleported to Hell’s Anvil in the Adamandir Mountains.

Having Bottleneck located in Gaza City, Leeha’s objective was not with the dwarves.


Beyond Hell’s Anvil, the target was Siand Pioneer Base.

“Right from there… We’re heading to the Dark Elf village.”

With all items, including magazines, perfectly equipped.

“It’s late.”

“From now on, I won’t wait.”

“Huh? We’re actually 15 minutes early compared to the agreed time. You guys arrived early!”

Even though they arrived early

“A relationship where someone always has to ‘sacrifice(?)’ due to ‘relative comparison.’

The trio headed towards the Dark Elf forest.

“Come to think of it, Kyle is the son of Elizabeth and Brown.”

After walking towards the Dark Elf forest for a while, Leeha spoke up.

Kidd and Luger remained silent.

“Did Elizabeth and Brown not know anything about the Arcane Sniper? If we add Browless… even the three families must have been connected to the Arcane Sniper for a long time.”

“Haha! Lucky for you guys, you’re competitors. One defeat is confirmed.”

“I agree.”

“What, what? Why?”

When Leeha’s thoughtful words were quickly ignored, he looked unjust, but Kidd remained tight-lipped.

“You forgot? The Arcane Sniper disappears. The moment the final bullet is fired. It’s erased from memory, so there’s no way it would be passed down.”

“But! Someone left it behind! A human named Max left it behind, on some unknown generation before us. Then, someone among them, who knows?”

“Did the monster named Zamiel forget about us?”


“Zamiel saw us, you idiot.”

Luger chuckled and quickened his pace.

Did Zamiel see the Three Musketeers last? As Kidd cocked his head not quite catching on, he added, “At the very least, the memory playback magic records past events. It simply recorded fixed events to play back, so why did he see us? It’s simple, because he’s a time-traveling monster.”

… Wait, are we delving into time travel and temporal interference now? So, the past Zamiel, who caught a glimpse of our future, revealed all the records? Then shouldn’t the future change?

“Although I don’t really like delving into it deeply, there is also the theory of parallel worlds. Let’s ignore that for now. At least the assumption that Zamiel prevented all of Max’s successors from leaving recorded accounts of their actions… seems like a reasonable idea.”

With that, Kidd concluded his words.

The ‘brain’ of the Three Musketeers was indeed Kidd. He didn’t entertain troublesome thoughts. He thoroughly considered the limits of Middle Earth and was adept at examining its inner and outer framework.

“Nothing to add.”

At that moment, the thought crossed Leeha’s mind that Kidd might actually fit in quite well with Max’s successors.

“On the contrary, if Luger were to become one, things might turn upside down. If Luger were to become one of Max’s successors, it might be the day Middle Earth’s servers go down for the first time. Obtaining the seven marks with great effort, killing from the top rank to the 6th, and while attempting to kill the 7th, might end up annihilating themselves.”

Leeha suddenly had that thought and burst into laughter, loud and lively.

Amidst the laughter, there was a rustling of fallen leaves.

The sound of clanking and aiming occurred in a split second.

“We are not enemies.”

“We’ve come to meet the chief.”

“Long time no see, dark Elves! It’s me, me! Leeha! Ha Leeha!”

Even Leeha, who was laughing, reacted immediately by raising Black Bass up into the air.

The Dark Elves cautiously surrounded the Three Musketeers, preparing to aim at them, but before they could disperse, the Three Musketeers had already discovered and aimed at them. With a swift response that couldn’t even be compared to when he first arrived, the dark elves in the trees had no choice but to come down with eyes widened in surprise.

“Oh, long time no see, everyone. Kidd, Luger, and the one connected to the power of the hero, Ha Leeha.”

As Kidd and Luger looked at him puzzled and asked about the ‘power of the hero’, Leeha pulled out the necklace he obtained by killing Igor and showed it off while swaying it.


The dark elves seemed somewhat perplexed, as if they were subtly intimidated.

“Am I giving off a newbie vibe because it’s been a while? No, maybe I just got stronger, so it feels that way.”

It wouldn’t be an exaggeration to say that the physical prowess of the dark elf reconnaissance squad was top-notch, but for Leeha, who had been through all sorts of experiences in the new continent, they seemed almost laughable.

It was not just a difference in experience but also because of how overwhelmingly different Leeha’s growth had been since then.

Leeha vaguely recalled the leader of the dark elf reconnaissance squad and approached him to speak.

“Tataru, would you guide me to the chief? In Kaztor-”

Before he could finish his sentence, the dark elves brandished their bows as if attacking.

“Where is the scum!?”

“Whoa, surprise. What’s going on?”

It was truly an unconscious reaction.

He was curious as to how merely mentioning a name could elicit such a response from beings of the same race.

“Apologize. Apologies.”

Leeha nodded his head.

‘Well, I did feel they were weak because I’ve gotten stronger, but-‘

He looked at the elves’ intimidated appearance once again.

“This seems serious.”

“… Takado-Pia was attacked. The chief is currently seriously injured and under tr-tr-treatment.”

There must have been a reason why they were clearly intimated.

“Is that related to Kaztor?”

“Obviously. That damn dark elf spawned all sorts of trouble-”

“Luger!”

“-… I didn’t say anything wrong.”

When Kidd suddenly got angry, Luger’s voice shrunk.

The dark elves looked at Luger with angry expressions, but Tatar soon calmed their emotions.

“Since he’s originally that kind of human, let’s put up with him and calmly explain. What happened in the village? Was it attacked? Is everything okay now?”

Tatar, the leader of the dark elf scouts, bit his lip.

“The village… is half destroyed. We thought the Takado-Pia barrier was intact, but it’s not- It’s not like that-”

“They were just watching! They were hiding, waiting for a chance to kill us! That’s what happened!”

“Huh? Kidd?”

A young dark elf behind Tatar stepped forward and shouted. It was clear that he was definitely too young to be involved in such a mission.

“How could he make footsteps so easily.”

Guessing that this was the one who immediately caught the trio’s attention, tatar asked the young dark elf.

“Who were they?”

“The wood elves!”

“The wood elves? The wood elves attacked?”

“There were a few humans involved as well. Kaztor… that damn bastard caused trouble from outside… The wood elves incited humans by claiming that we deliberately caused it and brought them here.”

“I see. In that case-”

“Yes. Those who already knew the location quickly stripped away the Takado-Pia barrier and attacked with humans. … That’s how it turned out.”

Tatar patted the young dark elf’s head.

It was clear that the situation was so urgent that even a child had to participate in the search.

“There seems to be one trouble after another. It’s going to be difficult to interpret the data right away.”

“Still, we need to go there first. Since our quest needs to be cleared by meeting the chief, can you guide us there?”

Kidd politely asked Tatar. Tatar seemed hesitant for a moment, but he was smart enough to remember Kidd, Luger, and Leeha’s names.

“Got it. It’s a little far from here, so we need to speed up-”

“You don’t have to worry about that. Those who can’t keep up can be left behind. Isn’t that right.”
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Kidd taunted Leeha and Luger, tucking Crimson Geckos into his waist.

Leeha, too, had his gun slung over his shoulder, ready to run at a moment’s notice.

While Luger also made preparations to move, the sinister grin on his face set him apart from Leeha.

“Why are you laughing like that?”

“Hehe… I just wish that attack was designated as a quest for the Wood Elf guys.”

“A quest?”

“A quest to destroy a Dark Elf village.”

“What a terrible idea. What if they counterattack? What if they come back while we’re still in that village?”

“Gomi. We still have a lot to discuss with the 14th, 15th, and 17th ranks.”

Leeha looked into Luger’s eyes. It was the gaze of a “war enthusiast” that he hadn’t seen in a while.

“Chief, it’s Tatar.”

When there was no response from Namotgaji and the tent made of intertwined leaves, tatar ventured inside first.

Leeha quickly surveyed the grim lives of the Dark Elves.

While they had lived in burrows before… now they truly lived in burrows.

They had dug into one side of a crumbling cliff in a planned manner to create their burrow.

It was like a kind of apartment complex, similar to an ant nest.

However, at the moment, far from the organized structure of a stronghold, they were merely sheltering near a large tree to keep the rain off their heads.

“It hasn’t been long since the attack. There are still many injured.”

“Well… and this makeshift shelter we’ve taken could easily be attacked. The forest provides good cover, but it’s difficult terrain to face the Wood Elves. The Wood Elves receive basic buffs, especially in the forest.”


The Wood Elves are above all a playable race. Since players could choose to play as a member of this race, their strengths and weaknesses were carefully balanced.

One of their strengths is combat in the forest. Along with their basic buffs for magic and familiarity with spirits, all their basic stats are increased during forest combat. If the dark elves knew that they had set up a makeshift shelter in such a sloppy place, they would immediately advance here.

“Hehehe, good, good. That’s it.”

Of course, some people welcomed that, so the rest had no choice but to lower their heads.

“Please, come in. Ah, well… I mentioned earlier that once the chief recovers, we will move to another place-”

“Oh, yes. Yes. It’s fine. The air is good here, what else.”

“You must be cautious at the borders.”

Tatar was aggressively scouting the surroundings, knowing very well that their current location was not suitable for defense.

The Three Musketeers soon entered the chief’s makeshift dwelling. The chief, who could barely sit up, welcomed them with a smile.

“0069 090800303ㅁ ㅁㅁ 0082디”

“Uh, yes?”

“Tomorrow is another day indeed. You all come after hearing about Kaztor’s accident and the cursed fellows.”

Perhaps because they had already heard the news that various information had been collected through Tatar. Although the chief didn’t look well, he continued to smile.

“I heard on the way here. Couldn’t be of much help and ended up arriving late, so it’s quite embarrassing.”

“Don’t say such things. We didn’t have high expectations in the first place. Even though you may be someone succeeding the hero’s strength and have become close to our tribe after so long as a human. Sit, I’ll bring coffee. Tatar!”

With a groan, the chief forced himself to move and offered the Musketeers a seat.

Having confirmed each other’s quest contents enough since investigating the Chief Mage’s laboratory, the three of them shared and cleared quests together when all conditions were met. Kidd naturally took out the Arcane Sniper’s journal and other dark elves’ record from the bag.

“Here it is.”

“Oh, oho! Yes, this is it. Filled with the wisdom and records of our ancestors… this!”

The chief embraced various books like treasures and exclaimed. The rest observed the scene with a strange emotion.


Even though they didn’t see the contents inside, at the moment when they rediscovered the book containing the wisdom of their ancestors while their group was in crisis, what would it feel like?

“The coffee still tastes good.”

“I agree. It reminds me of the days when we picked coffee beans.”

Just as they were getting emotional, if Luger and Kidd hadn’t burst into laughter at the words, maybe the rest would have shed a tear.

Leeha: Damn it, don’t make me laugh at this moment!

The Crimson Geckos or Cobalt Blue Pythons might have been there, but Luger and Kidd at that time were still ‘amateurs.’

They probably didn’t have much capital or information at that time. They must have put in efforts to gain intimacy with them.

“Thank you so much.”

And as the chief, who had been deeply engrossed in contemplation, finally raised his head, a bright light emanated from the bodies of the three Musketeers.

“Now that you have access to all the information… whatever information you desire, we will provide anytime.”

『You have completed quest to find the lost records of the Dark Elf.』

『You have acquired the achievement: understanding the value of archaeology.』

『Leveled up.』

『Leveled up.』

『Obtained the authority to subscribe to translated versions of all record held by the Dark Elf tribe.』

“Great! Then I have something I want to know right away! I’d like to know what the ‘Power of God’ mentioned in Arcane Sniper journal is. Kaztor once referred to it as the ‘God’s Sword’, but I want to know how it is described in the records passed down through the generations.”

“Right now? Just a moment, please wait.”

The chief attempted to move hastily, but his actions seemed unnatural.

He then realized his mistake.

“Ah! I apologize. I am still unwell.”


“It’s okay. I feel better when I ask about these books, it feels like sharing the pain. Ask me anything you’re curious about, I will find the necessary information and let you know.”

Despite that, the chief hesitated regarding the Musketeers. Leeha tried to step back at this point, but Luger and Kidd were not willing to let that happen.

“Accurate information on Arcane Bullet’s strength and abilities. Everything about the penalties of using Arcane Bullet.”

“I am curious about the 『Zamiel』 once called the origin of Arcane Bullet.”

The information they discussed was indeed something Leeha was also curious about. While they could somewhat grasp an idea from Arcane Sniper journal, definite information would put their minds at ease.

“Besides the 『Power of God』, I am also curious about… how to become a Arcane Sniper. It is likely related to the ‘Enhanced Rifle’, so please verify if that’s true. Also, find out if a non-Arcane Sniper can use those guns as well.”

Leeha couldn’t stay silent. In a situation where they might not come back here again, it was necessary to uncover all the information that sparked even a little curiosity.

“And one more thing, this is it. Elizabeth and Kyle! The gun Elizabeth used clearly belongs to a Arcane Sniper. However, Kyle is the Arcane Sniper. How can this relationship be valid? Another question that piqued the curiosity of the Musketeers.”

At the beginning of Arcane Sniper’s journal, it was clearly stated that it was not passed down through bloodline, leading to the speculation that there must be something special about it.

As they listened to the following words, Luger’s eyebrows furrowed once again.

“Well, that head seems to have some use after all. Yes. It is necessary to find out about that too.”

“I agree.”

“These humans? Just one more thing- hmm?”

Leeha who had been eyeing Luger and Kidd suddenly turned his head.

“What are you looking at? Are you finally going crazy?”

“No, it’s not that. It’s the presence of spirit. I didn’t feel it when I first came in.”

“What? Spirits? How do you know about that?”

Luger asked, but the Leeha did not answer. Leeha quickly rummaged through a bag and took out a magazine, swiftly attaching it to his Black Bass with a click!

Just as the quick action ended, a cry from the dark elves could be heard from outside the chief’s residence.

“Wood elves! The wood elves are coming, chief!”

“What? Those cursed bastards have already sniffed us out here! We may not be able to avoid it, what-”

The chief tried to get up hastily but soon stumbled.

With no chance for support from the person next to him, who was busy gathering the surrounding documents.

“No, this first. We have to protect this first. It’s our precious record, we can’t hand it over to those guys, can we?”

Whether Chief NPC protested or not, Luger and Kidd were watching the person.

“A dull person like you wouldn’t be able to smell the scent of battle. The presence of spirits? What did that earlier statement mean?”

“Well, just as it sounds. I became able to sense the presence of the spirits~.”

“Where and how did you gain such an ability?”

“Do you think I will tell you that?”

The person chuckled softly. It was an ability unlike any other they had shown so far.

“In this way, the reward obtained from the Dark Spirits in the dark forest was utilized. To fulfill the ‘enslavement(?)’ contract with Prea, Leeha made a deal with the Dark spirits, revealed the scene of Toon’s assassination, and completed the quest. One of the rewards received at that time was precisely this:

『Achievement: Master of Spirits(S+)』 Congratulations! You have gained recognition from Dark spirits, proving yourself as a charming figure in the spirit world for being acknowledged by two or more attributes of the Dark spirits. Making friends with Dark spirits who tend to push others away, rather than the more familiar Bone spirits! Perhaps you are the reincarnation of Allen Srna!? In hopes of pulling more Dark spirits into the bright world, we offer you a small gift!

Reward: Intelligence +9, spirit +9,

Skill: Spirit Detection acquired

You are the first registrant of the achievement ‘Master of Spirits.’

Up to the third registrant of the achievement, their names will be recorded in the Hall of Fame with an additional 200% of the existing effects applied. Effect: Intelligence +18

Spirit +18 Passive Skill – Spirit Detection! ‘It’s a shame that despite gaining recognition from the Dark spirits, I couldn’t make a contract with the Dark spirits…’

Having gained recognition from the Dark spirits for killing Toon, Leeha formed a contract with the Terror spirits.

Recognition of two or more attributes!

At that moment, it was considered that the achievement had been fulfilled.

Leeha opened the skill window to check his abilities once again.

『Novice’s Spirit Detection(Passive Level 1)』 Description: Can sense the energy of the spirits carried by not only the summoned spirits but also the spirit holders. As the grade and level increase, the detection range widens, and the type and grade of the spirits can be clearly identified. Effect: Detection of spirits and spirit holders around the user

Thanks to his skill, Leeha could be certain that the Dark Elves were indeed ‘physical fighters’.

When he met the members of the Dark Elf Search Team including Tatar, he felt nothing.

“Chief! You must seek shelter quickly! The cursed Wood Elves have more soldiers this time, it will be difficult to hold out longer than last time!”

Assessment-!

While Leeha, Kidd, and Luger were talking, the situation outside was rapidly changing.

Tatar rushed into the chief’s residence to support him, but there were people blocking his path.

“No need for that.”

“Yes, yes? It’s better for the guests to seek shelter quickly. Just by being with us, those scoundrels-”

“It’s okay. Tatar, please protect the chief here, and Chief! Answer the question we just asked, don’t take long to respond. It won’t be a lengthy process.”

“Well, just a moment-”

“Hahaha… Good. My luck is still on point. It’s happening just as I predicted.”

(To be continued…)”
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“Damn it, now that I think about it, Luger, it’s all because you were being cocky, isn’t it? No. Did you just insult those Wood Elf rankers from the beginning?”

“What? Do I seem like that kind of guy? Do you want to die?”

Tatar tried to stop the Three Musketeers, but they were already walking out towards the door and he couldn’t stop them.

“It’s better to say the final words to the Wood Elves outside, Luger.”

The three of them were fully prepared from the beginning. Missing the chance to put together the fragmentary and limited information about Arcane Bullet’s sniping into one coherent thread? The three of them who don’t shy away from a fight, or rather, are inclined to enjoy it, it suited them better not to hold back in this fight they were stepping into.

“I agree with that. How dare you interrupt this crucial moment! Do you all want to die!?”

Above all, this place is beyond the boundaries of the country, a pioneer base beyond the borders. It’s a land already full of outlaws, offering special privileges where additional misdeeds go unrecorded!

In a location that can be considered another ‘continent’ with a different meaning from the New Continent, the battle between Wood Elves and Dark Elves commenced.

It was Luger who fired the opening cannon.

“I’m tearing into them myself, it brings tears to my eyes with gratitude. 『Panzer Faust』.”

“Roger that.”

“The sound of cannons—”

That was the end of the three Wood Elves.

With the explosion, the three Wood Elves disappeared mercilessly, leaving no trace of their bodies behind!

Ugh… they’re still – so ignorant. Really, looking at where that hit is a 『Pierce』, geez, just call it an 『explosion』.”

“Even though they went and detonated after taking down five Amedra trees, 『Pierce』 suits it better.”

Ugh… I still don’t like it. If it’s a piercing, it’s a piercing, why add the explosion.”

Kidd chuckled as he listened to the grumbling below.

Tatar, who emerged from the chief’s place in a disheveled manner, looked at the three with a shocked expression.


“You blindly believed in numbers and didn’t even plan the operation properly. Well, perhaps the fact that the Dark Elves had weakened to that extent also played a part.”

The Wood Elves were charging from only one direction.

For Leeha, who had led troops ranging from platoons to divisions in the Middle Earth, the Wood Elves’ attack seemed reckless and brutish.

“Isn’t it fortunate that they let their guard down, allowing us to seize this opportunity?”

“I couldn’t agree more! Luger! Five o’clock, there are five—”

“I know!”

Boom!

A fierce backlash followed behind the Cobalt Blue Python.

Was it intentional or accidental that it happened to be directed at Leeha and Kidd?

“Phew… Do you want to die?”

“The fool is the one who couldn’t avoid it.”

The backlash was a kind of splash attack that combined heat and damage!

Of course, for Leeha, who had a 125% resistance to heat, it was just like getting dirty with dust, but it was still irritating.

“Just like you asked to see…”

“But that part is true.”

“Huh? Kidd? By the way, I was going to say that it could deal damage to… Lee-”

Leeha clicked his tongue as he saw Kidd adjusting his hat, now more than ten steps away.

Kidd was visibly on alert again.

The time it took for Luger to change the barrel direction and fire was just a fraction of a second.

“Predicting and reacting in decimal seconds. Damn, where did that kind of training and skill accumulation come from?”


Tatar, who had been staring blankly in front of the chief’s residence, snapped out of it around that time.

“Are, are you going to fight? There are many Wood Elves!”

“Why does the number matter so much! Just follow what I told you earlier. And…these Dark Elves fighting in chaos, can we command them?”

“Excuse me? No, rather than leaving it to the guests, I’d rather fight myself.”

“It’s okay. Tatar, please stay inside to protect the chief! We’ll act under your permission! 『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”

Leeha turned the barrel of Black Bass and used a skill.

Even though they couldn’t see all of the Wood Elves beyond the trees yet, it didn’t matter.

Thanks to ‘Spirit Detection’, Leeha could accurately sense their energy and direction.

–!

Tatar, who was about to say something to Leeha again, was brought to a stop by Luger’s shot and Leeha’s Multi-Warhead Shot skill. As the powerful and famous signature skill with tremendous destructive power exploded on the battlefield in the Middle Earth, chaos erupted among the Wood Elves as well.

“Luger! It’s the mercenary Luger!”

“Damn it, Ha Leeha is here too!”

“The one next to him is Kidd! Sleeping Kidd! Send the Spirit users first! If we don’t deal with them properly, we’ll be the ones suffering first!”

“The cursed Dark Elves have hired mercenaries!”

Their shouts were clearly heard by the trio.

Luger smirked as he reload his ammunition, and Kidd began preparing to move by loosening his ankles.

“But why am I still without a nickname? I’ve been quite active lately, haven’t I? Yet I’m still just ‘Ha Leeha’?”

“It’s because your character is weak, not the nickname.”

“Hmm, it doesn’t seem like someone nicknamed ‘Sleeping’ should be saying that.”

“That’s why I’m going to change it.”


“Huh? How are you going to change it?”

“Watch and see. Isn’t it true that nicknames aren’t something you give yourself?”

With those words, Kidd stepped forward after watching my movements and started speaking. At the same time, he started eliminating the wood elves one by one by loading his magazine and rushing towards them.

Luger and Leeha, who had practically come out of the chieftain’s residence, did not budge ‘even a single step’ and were effectively intercepting the wood elves’ charge.

Amid the forceful push of the wood elves, halted by the two, the dark elves also quickly retreated to regroup their frontlines.

In the meantime, Kidd plunged in.

“I trust you to come up with it. A nickname that isn’t too different from what I have in mind.”

Luger, who was adjusting the direction of the Cobalt Blue Python, also looked. So did Leeha.

In an instant, Kidd’s body completely disappeared.

The next thing heard was the screams of the wood elves. Kidd’s gunfire couldn’t even be heard.

The wood elves couldn’t understand.

How they were dying.

Why they were dying.

Why there was a hole in the side of the barrier created by the wind elemental ahead of them.

“Silent shooting…”

Leeha swallowed hard.

The Crimson Geckos with suppressors were spitting fire. However, what had changed from before was that even Kidd’s movements had become difficult to track with the naked eye.

“Detect!”

“You idiot, it’s not invisibility magic! Stop that and use an attacking skill!”

“I can’t use it if I can’t see! Scatter something with the spirits around us!”

Difficult to track with the eye. Difficult to hear with the ear. By the time they noticed him, something in their body had already twisted.

Kidd had become a ‘Stinger Bee’ that completely shredded the wood elves.

“Move aside! We’ll catch that guy!”

“He’s quite the famous outsider, truly living up to his reputation.”

“Haha! But some things are just not meant to be! Hoo hoo hooo!”

It was then that three other Wood Elves entered Leeha’s sight. Among them, the Wood Elf wielding an enormous axe stood out significantly compared to the other two, exuding a presence that could make one’s heart skip a beat.

“Kidd!”

“What’s going on?”

Boooom-!

Just as the axe was about to strike, Kidd had already returned to Leeha’s side. Despite the bizarre movements, Leeha’s concern grew as he raised Black Bass and aimed at the brutish Wood Elf wielding the axe.

Taaaaang……!

“Sir—”

However, the attack was futile. All that remained where the Wood Elf had stood was scattered ice shards resembling his figure.

“Haha! If that had been real, you’d be dead, right?”

“Of course. It’s not like I’d be hit by such a foolish attack. Unless I was caught off guard after being frozen, that is.”

The one who stood in place of the crude axe wielder was a white-haired man in white attire.

Their physique and skin tone were different enough to make it seem like they weren’t the same Wood Elves.

“Let’s not waste time. Leave it to the Dark Elves and focus on catching these three first.”

As they spoke, another unruly-haired Wood Elf emerged from behind them.

Leeha had a premonition and Luger immediately confirmed that his hunch was correct.

“Hehehe, they’ve finally appeared. Ranked 14th, 15th, 17th… I’ll devour all three of them.”

Luger retrieved ammunition from his bag.

‘Are those guys Rankers?’

Leeha turned his head to ask when the appearance of the ammunition caught his eye.

“Huh? What’s that—”

Clack!

As if he didn’t want Leeha to notice, Luger quickly loaded it.

Luger raised his gun, and the trio of Wood Elf Rankers began to charge towards Leeha’s group. At least in that moment, the Wood Elves seemed to have the upper hand in terms of momentum. Kidd’s offensive was considerably weakened to prepare against unknown enemies, and Leeha needed to carefully shoot the ammunition against the magic handling the ‘Illusion Skill’ similar to what Ramhwa had used.

“Hahaha, let’s go! Hwiba! If you get caught by the Power of God in my axe, you’re a Ranker, an Outsider, all in one shot!”

However, at the last moment, as soon as the words of the Wood Elf holding the axe were spoken, Leeha and Kidd’s eyes began to light up. 『Power of God』. Because they were the kind of people whose eyes would roll back at anything related to Arcane Bullet’s marksman.

“Power of God-”

“Surely that wouldn’t happen… We can’t lose to Luger!”

“Anyway, you guys better be faster than my bullets!”

Tugwaaaaang! Leeha immediately pulled the trigger.

Leeha: Ram Hwayeon, can I ask you for some information about Rankers?

Almost finished with Ezwen’s business and getting ready back in Castle Dale, Ram Hwayeon heard a familiar voice.

Ram Hwayeon: You always ask and yet you act surprised now?

Leeha: Well, still… It’s kind of embarrassing to keep asking like that.

Perhaps due to Leeha’s slightly embarrassed tone, Ram Hwayeon’s lips twitched upwards.

Ram Hwayeon: I see. So? Who is it this time?

Leeha: Oh, 14th, 15th, 17th.

Ram Hwayeon: Scandinavia? You got involved with those people? Must be annoying.

Leeha: S-Scandinavia?! What’s that?

At Leeha’s clueless tone, Ram Hwayeon let out a sigh and shook her head. Setting aside the documents she was organizing for a moment, she leaned her chin on the edge of the desk.

Ram Hwayeon: Surely you’re not asking because you don’t know the Scandinavian Peninsula? Those three are from there, same species, strangely nicknamed due to their different nationalities.

Leeha: Oh. Strong?

Ram Hwayeon: More than strong. Individually, they might just be regular top 10 Rankers. But if the three of them combine their strength, it’s like facing ten thousand, even one or two people would have a hard time dealing with it.

Ram Hwayeon quickly found the files containing information on the three Rankers.

Ram Hwayeon: 14th, ‘Sveor’. A magician from Sweden with many light-related skills. While more utility-oriented than offensive, when combined with the 17th-ranked Ice Mage from Finland, ‘Hwiba’, things can get really tricky. Leeha: Making illusions or using binding skills like an aurora?

Ram Hwayeon: Yes, you know it well. It’s quite tricky because he condenses light and uses it like a bomb. If he snatches the light entering one’s eyes, it can even lead to 『Abnormal status: Blind』.

Since the three of them were mainly active, the file compiled by Jachung also perfectly organized the three’s cooperative skills.

(To be continued…)
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Upon hearing a question from Leeha, Ram Hwayeon, already ready to ask why such information was needed, was particularly focused on providing information about the battle patterns of the three individuals.

Ram Hwayeon: So, if 14th and 17th use long-range suppression attacks, protect allies, and use the to bind enemies… then the 15th appears to finish things off.

‘Viyom’, a Norwegian known for wielding an axe made from the horns of Wood Elf forest. That’s no joke, right?

Leeha: Right, it’s definitely not a joke.

However, Leeha’s response felt somewhat off for some reason. Clearly not knowing about them, Leeha must have asked himself. Therefore, most of the information given by Ram Hwayeon was new to Leeha and required some getting used to.

Leeha: But why are you saying…?

Ram Hwayeon: It’s no joke?

Leeha: Phew, yeah. Thanks! Treat next time!

Ram Hwayeon: Wait, hold on! What’s going on- It was only natural that Ram Hwayeon couldn’t accurately assess Leeha’s situation. Unless it was someone like the Three Musketeers’ window, the location of a regular friend wouldn’t be indicated precisely, leading to a lack of material for further speculation.

Even the great Ram Hwayeon couldn’t know Leeha’s current situation.

“Phew, how great would it be if we had heard Ram Hwayeon’s information beforehand and fought.”

“… You’re saying that after eating two things recklessly?”

“Huh? Why is it reckless to eat two things? You also got one each, right?”

“Um, what I ate, I barely dodged with my move-”

“Exactly. So I ‘Bang!’ aimed for that move. Isn’t teamwork about that?”

Leeha chuckled.

Kidd shook his head with a sigh. The situation between the two was improving slightly.

“Ugh, this darn it! Damn it! I can’t hold it in today! Hey, Kidd! Let’s play a round right now!”

Of course, what they referred to as ‘eating or ‘taking’ was an achievement.


『Achievement: Ranker Hunt (20) – 15th, “Viyom” (B+)』

Congratulations! You have killed the fifteenth-highest level user among the top 20 users in Middle Earth. Hopefully, you didn’t kill them by luck. Be careful since they might come back to reclaim the Ranker Hunt achievement! Effect: Temporary Stat 30 points (recovered upon death of the target user)

(This achievement does not have an Honor Hall.)

『Achievement: Ranker Hunt (20) – 17th, “Hwiba”(B+)』

Effect: Temporary Stat 30 points (recovered upon death of the target user)

(This achievement doesn’t have an Honor Hall.)

Both of them belong to Leeha. 『Achievement: Ranker Hunt (20) – 14th place, “Sveor” (B+)』

Effect: Temporary status points 30 (recoverable upon user’s death) (This achievement does not qualify for the Hall of Fame.) One of them was Kidd’s.

The battle was quite challenging at 3:3, but the Three Musketeers emerged victorious in the end, rightfully claiming the loot of the rankers as outsiders.

“Come at me, Leeha–!”

“… Am I crazy, picking a fight with someone holding such brutish bullets?”

“Well, you’re right.”

“I, I’ve learned everything from Brown! Bring it on!”

Except for Luger, who failed to gain anything by revealing even his most cherished skill, when nearly 500 elite Wood Elf troops launched their assault, the ‘Scandinavian’ fell apart, their front line beginning to crumble.

When the Dark Elves, after the Three Musketeers’ feats and reorganization, launched a counterattack, Luger, infuriated at not getting any achievement, went berserk, shouting, “Maybe I’ll get the achievement if I kill 300 alone!”

The Wood Elves could no longer stand their ground.

“We did it, we won! Humans, humans protected us from the Wood Elves!”

The little Dark Elf embraced the thigh below Tatar’s hip.

“It’s a legend… a reenactment of a legend!”

“The Arcane Sniper! The Arcane Bullet’s Shooters protected us just like the old days!”


“Cursed Wood Elves! Come at us, we have the Arcane Bullet’s Shooters!”

“They are even three this time!”

The Dark Elves cried out with tears of joy. Still filled with the heat of battle and the recent threat of annihilation, they showed more than necessary appreciation towards the Three Musketeers.

“Except for the chief, it seems like everyone is unaware.

‘Arcane Bullet’s Shooters’…”

“No atmosphere. Just enjoy it, Kidd. Thank you! Thank you, everyone!”

Kidd patted the shoulder of the mumbling Luger and raised his hand in the air.

Waaaah–!

Just before facing total annihilation, the three were now honored as heroes by the Dark Elf tribe.

Uh…the achievement is…my achievement…

Luger’s muttering was buried under the cheers of the Dark Elves.

***

“Alright, alright. Let’s finalize off today’s success, and it’ll all be over once tomorrow’s dawn breaks. This tiresome life of wandering will finally come to an end!”

Kijung clenched his shield tightly, and the Paladin who was with him looked at him.

“What’s the matter, the Exorcism Cardinal?”

“Oh, nothing really. Hehe.”

A Holy Knight and Exorcism Cardinal, Kijung. Although unofficial records were enough to call him “The Man who fought 1:1 against Ghibrid”, he still maintained a pure smile. Perhaps it was natural for him.

With about 14 hours left until the Conclave vote that could decide the fate of Middle Earth, Kijung was not worried about it but rather thinking about the freedom after the vote.

“Well then, let’s head back.”

“Yes, thank you for your hard work in protecting the peace of the Papacy today.”


“Don’t mention it. In the presence of the Holy Knight who comes out first and goes in last, our efforts are nothing more than tiny dust.”

“Oh, why are you saying that again? Hehe. Even if you put me on a plane, nothing will change.”

“A p-plane?”

“It’s nothing! Well, have a good rest then.”

Kijung joked with the Paladin, laughed for a while at the rigid posture of the Paladin, then sent him off.

The setting sun had almost completely set. Just when Kijung was joking around with the Paladin, the surroundings had gotten darker.

“Exorcism Cardinal, Holy Knight, master Kay.”

“Who’s there?”

People came out of the dark alleyway and surrounded Kijung from the front and back.

It was getting late at night, but it was still only early evening. Naturally, there were NPCs around, but such audacity!

As Kijung gripped his sword handle, pushing through the surrounding people, someone came forward.

“Drawing a sword in the Papacy might put the Exorcism Cardinal in danger. Are you sure that’s alright?”

“Oh?… Exorcism Cardinal. At this hour… What brings you here with these people?”

Kijung recognized him. Among the high-ranking officials, not all of them were the same, even though they are all officials.

“There’s someone waiting to see you, please quietly follow.”

“Oh, really? Hmm… I thought everyone would be busy with ‘this and that.’

Even Borgia was caught up in the ‘aide incident’ revelation-

Swish!

Kijung had to momentarily close his mouth at the intimidating aura emanating from the Borgia, readying himself with drawn brows.

“I advised you to come quietly, exorcist official.”

In Borgia’s trembling right hand, a small dagger was clenched.

As part of Cheka’s machinations, key forces that could aid Tusculani were also embroiled in scandals. Borgia was no exception, with Kijung mentioning the ‘aide incident’, a part of it.

“It seems to be quite difficult indeed. This open…”

Kijung nodded. There was no need to incite any incidents with everything ending the next day.

“Yes, let’s go.”

There were still many eyes watching around.

Kijung was certain that there wasn’t much they could do. As expected, bureau didn’t make any trouble.

Having even contemplated the possibility of a sudden attack while locking the space, Kijung arrived at the mansion feeling somewhat perplexed.

“This is…”

“The place where someone is waiting to see you. Of course, you already knew that.”

“Of course. How could I not know. This place…”

They weren’t intending to kill or imprison Kijung. Bringing Kijung out into the public eye was meant to be done in a location far brighter than earlier.

“Tusculani official’s estate.”

Even the naive Kijung could tell. Their final, absolute choices ultimately revealed their true nature.

The interior of the mansion was splendid.

Despite much exposed and social disgrace due to Cheka’s revelations, the flame of Tusculani’s household pride remained unextinguished.

“But there wasn’t enough time for that.”

Cheka had to spread the truth far and wide and contain the fire, but most of the Cardinals turned a blind eye, that was it. Cheka’s ‘undercover operation’ was only effective up to the conclave. The 140 years of accumulated wisdom in the church had been sturdy.

“Chairman Tusculani, I have brought Excorcism Cardinal Master Kay.”

“Oh, oh. Yes. Didn’t I ask you to receive them politely, Borgia?”

“Yes, master. I apologize.”

Borgia retreated abruptly after receiving a scolding from Tusculani. Kijung had seen Tusculani’s face several times already, so he could tell.

“Who would believe such a person to be a bad guy”, he thought.

Among the users of Ezwen, especially those who had chosen professions in the priest and healer categories, Tusculani’s support base was quite strong. It was inevitable. He didn’t look like a villain or have a bad personality at all. Kijung even thought, from an image-making perspective, that Tusculani seemed more fitting as a Pope.

Dressed in a robe made of fabric that was not pure white but had a deep color, Tusculani gestured for Kijung to take a seat.

“Please, sit down, exorcism Cardinal. It is extremely rare in the long history of the sect for a person to be granted a title immediately upon becoming a Cardinal. Isn’t that right, Borgia?”

“Yes.”

“Indeed, one could say he is a remarkable talent, especially inheriting the power of the Holy Knights. As a capable individual joining the ranks of the Cardinals in our Ezwen, we cannot express enough gratitude.”

Tusculani and Borgia praised Kijung back and forth. Refreshments were served, but Kijung ignored them and simply listened to their conversation.

“Thank you. But the reason for this private meeting… It doesn’t seem to be for that.”

Tusculani’s gaze flickered for a moment as he put down his teacup and faced Kijung directly.

“Indeed. Such discussions can be had later as much as we want, exorcism Cardinal. The reason we called you here is not for that. Nowadays, ezwen is in a tumultuous state. In a time where unity must be strengthened, there are external forces trying to disrupt our internal cohesion.”

“That’s right. I have also heard interesting news about Cardinal Tusculani.”

Tusculani spoke with a worried tone, but Kijung would only respond with a feigned interest.

(To be continued…)
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It was Borgia who rose from his chair in a rage, slamming it.

“How, how outrageous! Are you trying to insult Cardinal Tusculani with such an investigation!”

“Sit down, Borgia.”

“Hmph!”

A well-behaved dog.

Kijung shot a mocking gaze towards Borgia and then looked back at Tusculani.

Tusculani cleared his throat before speaking.

“So, you’re the one who will stabilize the situation. For the future of the Aesone, even if it means rejuvenation… If you dare to be a bit more ambitious, I see you rising from the Exorcism Cardinal to the Pope.”

“Me?”

“Of course! But for that to happen…”

“So, in this papal election, cardinal Tusculani must be elected?”

“Indeed, a clever friend is always aware of what needs to be done.”

“And the next… Maybe you, Borgia, will be the one. Am I the next in line to become Pope? You shouldn’t just assume that so easily.”

Kijung asked with a twinkle in his eye. Tusculani adjusted his posture with a self-assured smile.

“Do you know how many years I’ve served as the chairman of 09? No, since the day I received the priest’s garment, I’ve never strayed from the center of the Pope’s office.”

“Impressive.”

“I am a perfect inner circle… Even if I momentarily lose to a dog like Romero in this election, it wouldn’t be my defeat. Well then! There are various ways to bring down a Pope. I won’t falter, master Kay.”

Hoorooro.

Tusculani made a clinking sound as he raised his glass. When he finally set down the glass, he spoke earnestly.


“Come under my wing. I will generously support everything you have. Tell me what you desire.”

Kijung looked into Tusculani’s eyes. There was no hesitation in his gaze.

‘Indeed, truly remarkable NPC… Even in such a desperate situation resembling a cornered mouse, to still hold such confidence…’

If Kijung wasn’t a Holy Knight and an Exorcism Cardinal, there was a thought that he might have been swayed by Tusculani’s provocations if he wasn’t someone who actually employed Cheka and sought help.

“I’m sorry, but it can’t be done like that.”

“You can vote for Romero right away if you want. But I’m talking about the future. Think carefully. Don’t you have family?”

“What??”

Kijung, who was about to get up from his seat, had to pause for a moment at Tusculani’s remark.

“Byulcho… That’s it. The one you are leading, your family.”

“Yes. It’s the guild I hold as the Master.”

“Even if Romero becomes the Pope and significant events unfold in the New Continent… wouldn’t it be better for them to move smoothly with my support? Isn’t that right?”

“That place is a battlefield. Having someone who can heal is helpful to us.”

“Haha, I’ve heard a bit about your behavior and character, but I don’t know much about this aspect yet.”

As Kijung spoke with determination, Tusculani smiled knowingly, taking a sip of his drink before speaking.

It was only when Kijung’s body tensed up that he spoke.

“Even if I don’t actively push you, I don’t have to pull your strings… Wouldn’t it be easier for you and your family to live in the New Continent if I don’t interfere?”

It was at that moment Kijung’s pupils dilated.

Kijung had underestimated Tusculani, the Chairman of 09, from the beginning. The reason why the mafia-like Cheka kept digging deeper and deeper into him!

…”

Are you threatening me?”


Tusculani wasn’t trying to “buy” Kijung from the start.

“If you put it that way, I’d be disappointed. I just said I would give you everything you want. I’m only saying that working together for the Papacy is the best way for us.”

No, perhaps this was the real “purchase” he hadn’t realized.

Tusculani’s subtle use of carrot and stick, along with his influence, to intimidate had reached an exceedingly high level for Kijung’s simple nature to handle. Kijung’s body was trembling. Tusculani sadly observed this and let out a mocking laugh.

“Find Romero’s weakness. No, you don’t even need to have a weakness. Just tell them before tomorrow’s vote that Romero is behind the recent series of noisy scandals at the Ezwen Papacy, whether it’s true or not, that alone will be enough-”

“Hoo—uhhh…?

In its own way, it was a setting that was close to the top tier. With Judgment 41, which held a considerably high position, Kijung’s actions could be analyzed as that of a ‘scaredy-cat.’

But it was also because Midell Earth couldn’t accurately analyze the user Master Kay’s behavior yet.

Kijung met Tusculani’s eyes.

“Embarrassing as it is for me to say this, am I not somewhat famous for being kind?”

“… Indeed. The spirit that takes after 『Unnamed Paladin』… Your selflessness to the extent of becoming a 『Holy Knight』… Your exemplary actions and character that have spread widely enough to earn you the nickname 『Exorcism Cardinal』. Isn’t that what made it in an instant?”

“Hehe, that’s right. Because of that, people often make mistaken assumptions.”

“Mistaken assumptions?”

As Tusculani and Borgia chuckled, Kijung crossed his legs. Sitting on the chair with a haughty posture, Kijung placed his right hand on the handle of his sword.

Borgia flinched and tried to call the guards, but Tusculani stopped him.

Watching the flustered expressions of those present, Kijung chuckled for a moment before continuing, “The reason I carry out good deeds is simply because it reminds me of the difficult times I went through. But watching me do good deeds… especially when people above me, like you, think of me as ‘compliant.’

It’s quite irritating.”

Kijung tapped his leg.

Starting his sentence in formal speech but ending it in plain speech, Kijung’s strange choice of address left Tusculani momentarily speechless.

Only after a while did his face start turning red.


“You should watch your manners, master Kay. How dare you speak to me, as the chairman of 09—”

“What’s with this Chairman 09. Are you in a position higher than me?”

“What?”

Kijung loosened his crossed legs, then bent his upper body and closed the gap between him and Tusculani a bit more.

Even Tusculani, who had served as the head of the 9 Cardinals’ Council and engaged in various bold actions, felt momentarily overwhelmed by Kijung’s momentum.

“Cardinal Tusculani, I don’t know what you’ve been up to, or should I say what setup you’ve been playing around with? This kind of talk even annoys me a bit! Think before you speak. I may be good, but I’m not obedient. Maybe my thoughts are a bit lacking. But I have my own principles of judgment. So let’s just go ahead and pretend I didn’t hear what you said today.”

Kijung spoke slowly while controlling his breathing.

Then he quickly stood up. Even when Borgia couldn’t quite gather his thoughts due to his asymmetric behavior, tuskulrani remained composed.

“You’ll regret it. If Romero doesn’t become the Pope tomorrow, I might just cancel your Cardinal appointment. Even if it can happen, your smooth sailing days are over.”

“Haha, yeah, I’ll regret it. So go ahead, try to make me regret it. If you’re so confident, take away my Cardinal position or whatever. I didn’t come here to see things like that in the first place. Now, where’s the exit?”

As Kijung rose energetically and headed towards the door, tuskulrani had one more thing to say.

“I can’t make you the Pope right now. But I can make one person an instant criminal. Someone very close to you.”

Stop.

Kijung’s hand, about to open the door, froze in midair.

“Uh… Hahaha. On the day Kaztor spread terror, bullets flew in Ezwen. According to the headquarters investigation team, it’s clear that the source of the twisted and scattered bullets was his doing. I believe it was an attempted assassination of the Pope.”

On that day, everyone present at the gathering knows that Leeha aimed to snipe Kaztor.

Leeha is the one who relentlessly pursued Kaztor to inflict fatal wounds.

However, even if the truth is as such, how many would politically acknowledge it?

Foreign figures would not be willing to take sides even to weaken Virelle’s power.

If Eswa demands firmly, there’s a possibility Virelle might have to issue a warrant for Leeha!

Tusculani clearly saw through Leeha and Kijung’s relationship, using it as a weapon.

Ah… Are you done talking?”

“What, what?”

Swish!

Kijung drew his sword and inserted it into its sheath, making a sharp sound.

“I asked if you’re done talking.”

That was Chairman 09’s misjudgment.

Why has Kijung’s reputation and sacrifice spread so widely? Willing to sacrifice his cardinal appointment or not. Holy Knight? Who cares. But the moment you mess with Leeha or Byulcho, that moment?

Step, step, step.

Kijung marched straight towards Tusculani.

“W-What are you doing! If you strike me now-”

With a firm stance, Kijung stood in front of Tusculani, who seemed intent on burying himself in the back of the chair.

“Not.

‘Now'”, Kijung said, looking down at him. It was a tiger-like gaze fixed on a piece of meat. Even Tusculani, who had maintained his composure until now, almost radiated such intense energy that Kijung turned around and headed towards the door without looking back.

As Kijung stormed out as if he were going to kick the door down, none of the guards at Tusculani’s mansion could stop him.

“Hey! If you sincerely intend to try it once… first, you need to calculate how many Paladin battalions are needed to stop me, chairman Tusculani. Hmm, and if Leeha Hyung or all of Byulcho also join in… Well, what will happen then?”

Step by step, Kijung continued walking away.

“It won’t take more than two hours for all of your ‘Inner Circle’ that you boast about, along with your precious Ahlo, to run away. This is a sincere advice, so listen carefully! Then!”

Kijung waved his hand without looking back and left Tusculani’s mansion.

There was a black shadow on the rooftop of that mansion, looking down at Kijung.

“The bait seems untouched.”

“Phew… Right, that’s it! Master Kay wouldn’t do that! You could’ve been in big trouble if you had touched him earlier, Cheka!”

“One must exclude individuals who might become a potential danger. If Master Kay had switched sides to Tusculani’s, Romero’s chances of winning would have dropped to less than half.”

Lark let out a sigh upon receiving Cheka’s message.

Following orders thoroughly is good, but dealing with someone so inflexible…

“He’s not that type of person! I can feel it.”

“Even if you were to fight, do you really think you can defeat Master Kay? If he becomes a complete monster–”

“I will win.”

“What?”

“If that’s the command, even if it’s the ‘Exorcism Cardinal’, I can win.”

Lark couldn’t say anything more.

Just adding a soft remark, “Even if you can win, it doesn’t mean you’re winning.”

“What?”

“Mutual respect. If you provoke Master Kay, someone else might come out. It will be even harder to deal with them, so it’s better not to provoke them as long as possible. This is sincere advice.”

“… Got it.”

Cheka remained hidden in the dark, watching Holy Knight Kijung navigate through the corridors. And at some point, he was pondering a certain threat he had seen and felt at the secret meeting room of the Papal Office. (To be continued…)
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The Dark Elf tribe’s encampment was still bustling with activity. The majority of Dark Elves were busy clearing away the bodies of Wood Elves or salvaging usable equipment. Of course, the Three Musketeers were nowhere to be found. They had more important matters to attend to than showing interest in the items dropped by their enemies.

Relying on the faint light of a blurry fire within the chieftain’s quarters, the three individuals leaned in to listen.

“We have found everything you asked about. If there are any documents, it’s just a matter of finding and reading them, so it wasn’t too difficult.”

“Wow! I’ve heard Dark Elves are the keepers of records! Truly fascinating.”

… It might be better not to give such backhanded compliments.”

“I, I meant it when I said I was happy!”

Speaking with a grumble, the trio sat in front of the chieftain. Meanwhile, Luger knelt a bit further away, leaning against the wall.

“I… I didn’t get any achievements, and that could be evidence that my attack power is inferior to that of Leeha or Kidd, so I was not just disappointed.”

Naturally, there was no one to comfort (?) him. Leeha and Kidd only listened to the chieftain’s words.

“Then, let’s start with the 『Power of God』 you were curious about. It’s the ultimate power that even God didn’t use. At least through our tribe’s records and the daring clash with the Arcane Sniper, we believe it has the ability to avoid the power of 『The Final Bullet』.”

Write?

The chieftain picked up a book and flipped through it, pointing to a passage with his hand. Although written in the language of Dark Elves and unreadable to them, the chieftain immediately interpreted it.

“A white rose will embrace the final black charcoal.”

“A white rose… Does it signify the manifestation form of 『Power of God』?”

“It is presumed to be. As you mentioned, 『Power of God』 is not simply in the form of a sword. It will change its appearance depending on the user. Even with the simple use of that power, one can gain tremendous strength, but the true ability… it is what I just mentioned.”

A spark began to ignite in Luger’s despondent eyes.

“I heard that 『The Final Bullet』 is meant to annihilate the user. Does that mean it can be prevented?”

“Yes. If you use 『Power of God』, you can prevent the Arcane Sniper from annihilating the user.”

… In essence, it means no penalty, right?”


“Well, if that’s true – no, that might be why Max Hescok came here.”

Leeha and Kidd locked eyes.

“That’s right. At that time, arcane Sniper, max, had already used up five shots. Arcane Bullet’s gun has a total of seven shots. The seventh shot, the final Arcane Bullet, which would destroy the user, put Arcane Sniper who came looking for our clan in significant danger.”

“Wow!”

“Indeed, seven shots in total.”

The Three Musketeers completely understood as they listened to the chief’s words. Hadn’t they seen through the same ‘memory’? The path Max was taking led towards the Dark Elf’s lair.

“The 『Power of God』 was desperately needed. At that time, as I had already used up five shots, if I were to use one more shot, the remaining final Arcane Bullet would have annihilated Max Hescok himself, so there was an urgent need for it.”

“But we can’t say there are no restrictions at all. 『Power of God』 only prevents 『The Last Arcane Bullet』, it doesn’t shield all the pain experienced by the one possessing Zamiel’s power. Zamiel’s power consumes everything about the guardian. Unless you use the Arcane Bullet at the right time to expel it, your own body will disintegrate.”

Luger spoke up first, just as it had happened in Max’s memory playback.

“How many pieces does that team consist of?”

“Well, that… I can’t say. It seems like it varies slightly depending on how much of Zamiel’s power is accepted and how one interacts with Zamiel.”

“So, this Zamiel…”

“Zamiel is the very power of the Devil; in a way, it can be seen as another form of the Devil. If the Demon King’s Fragments came from the Devil, then Zamiel can be seen as a more pure form of the Devil’s power.”

“Are they like twins?”

“That analogy isn’t very fitting.”

“That idiot always uses words like that. Intuitive, but…”

Kidd and Luger teased Leeha, causing his face to flush with embarrassment. Nevertheless, the expression itself was somewhat fitting.

The original power of the Devil, manifested into 『Arcane Bullet』. Before devising a plan to annihilate oneself while challenging God, fragments were preemptively separated, resulting in creations from one’s fragments, 『Demon King’s Fragments』. If the self born from 『Arcane Bullet』 is Zamiel, then ultimately, Zamiel, Bluebeard, Ghibrid, and others are somewhat akin to ‘a different set of brothers’, as Leeha put it.

“The penalty received when becoming the Arcane Sniper ultimately depends on Zamiel, the source of Ma’s power.”

“Using Arcane Bullet can be understood as a form of poison. It is very potent; just having it harms the user and eventually, it devours the user’s own self…”


“Haha… What’s the importance of that. As long as one possesses 『Power of God』, there’s practically no final penalty. Poison? Well said. Poison or fire, it all depends on how and who uses it to determine whether it’s 100% or -100%.”

A smirk tugged at the corner of Luger’s mouth.

With his self-assured attitude, as if he had already become a Arcane Sniper, Leeha and Kidd had no choice but to look at each other once again.

“That last statement is the issue. If left to you, Luger…”

“Well, from now on, it may result in the deaths of six Rankers, and the firing of the seventh Arcane Bullet shot is not out of the question.”

As the two nodded to each other and engaged in conversation, Luger tried to interject in annoyance, but the chieftain just smiled slyly and pulled out another booklet.

“The questions you were curious about seem to have been answered to this extent-”

“Oh, before that! 『Power of God』, earlier you mentioned the 『White Rose』, where can we obtain it?”

As the chieftain attempted to wrap up boldly, Leeha quickly asked, but couldn’t hear the answer she desired.

“We don’t know that either. We have information about the power of God, but there are no records of it being used. It’s rumored that the human once known as Max, the last guardian who left after staying for about a week, didn’t leave any trace of it being used. Perhaps there are similarities between you and him.”

“Similarities?”

“When a vast army of Wood Elves marched towards us, he stopped it with a single bullet and left. Maybe all humans who handle firearms are helpers of the Dark Elves.”

“Ahem.”

Leeha remembered a story he heard from the chieftain. The Tale of the guardian of the last Guardian, who was rumored to have saved the Dark Elves.

“But a vast army? With just one shot?”

Having considerable knowledge about the Guardians by now, Leeha could roughly guess that the one shot was surely related to 『Arcane Bullet』.

The commander of the vast army or the king of the invisible Wood Elves must have been killed.

“But killing isn’t the issue. The important thing is that he sent back the enraged Wood Elves who were clearly about to retaliate.”

It was a much more challenging task than simply targeting and assassinating someone. Having witnessed recent conflicts between humans and Paleos, Leeha knew better than anyone else.

“Max Hescok, also known as 『Bullseye』, wasn’t just throwing himself at Arcane Bullet but-”


“Including negotiations and a natural heroic potential, huh. Well, from the perspective of the Wood Elves, he might have been the worst of terrorists.”

Did Max ultimately acquire the 『Power of God』?

Leeha was curious about his fate, but there was no more information left.

“I was about to mention that a considerable amount of the information you brought was our legacy records. But this is…”

“This is?”

“A document made by Kaztor. It seems to be a research literature.”

“Wow!”

“K-Kaztor?”

“Does it mention anything about the High’s Citadel information?”

The ancient marks looked similar, but they were definitely different somewhere. The Three Musketeers sprang forward as if they were going to devour the chief, seeing a book neatly titled in front of them.

“Just a moment. I have various things to say, but the essential story is about ‘Vitality Jar’! !”

“Vitality Jar?”

And there, the Three Musketeers listened. Especially for Leeha and Kidd, it was a story that resonated deeply with their souls. A vessel that contained all their life essence. As long as the vessel remained intact, there would be losses but no annihilation of life.

“So, even in that state, you were able to escape?”

It was strange to Leeha as well. How could one function with over 70% of their physical body missing?

“Although it seemed like there were damages, it didn’t seem like a complete loss. So, that was the case.”

Damage may occur, but annihilation does not, as long as the vessel of life, ‘Vitality Jar’, remains intact.

“It’s somewhat similar to becoming a lich, but the difference is that they’re not undead. That Kaztor guy managed to master the transformation into a human in the new continent as well as conducting this kind of research.”

“Is it written that he did that in the new continent?”

“Well, that seems to be the case.”

The eyes of the Three Musketeers met simultaneously. If he learned such technology in the new continent and applied it, where could he hide ‘Vitality Jar’? It must never be destroyed. It should never be touched by anyone. Kaztor must have known about that place for a long time.

“It’s towards the new continent.”

“It’s not even on the level of the paleo Stronghold of Harhei. Much… much further, somewhere.”

“It’s one of the three directions.”

Kidd also rose from his seat, his gaze fixed on the Crimson Geckos. If you were to advance further westward in the New Continent, where would you go? As Kidd put it, there were only three options left:

The north of the New Continent.

The east of the New Continent.

The south of the New Continent.

From one of these places, Kaztor may have learned great skills and hidden clues about the Vitality Jar.

“Remember. Although the three of you are benefactors to our tribe, only one of you can obtain what you desire.”

As the three rose from their seats to prepare to leave, the chieftain bid them farewell and offered some advice.

“… The Arcane Sniper can only be one person in the end, can’t it?”

“That’s right. The one human who ‘obtains’ the rifle ‘first’ after the death of the Arcane Sniper. Only the one who holds the weapon imbued with Zamiel will become the Arcane Sniper.”

As the three listened to the chieftain’s words and prepared to depart, haya considered something again as if something had come to mind, and asked a question again.

“If one is not the Arcane Sniper, then what happens to the rifle?”

“Max said it cannot be used. I’m sorry I cannot give you a clear answer to your question.”

“Okay. That’s enough for now.”

Elizabeth is not the Arcane Sniper. According to Max, she is unable to use the rifle of the Arcane Sniper.

“It’s something different. And that difference might be… likely due to Kaztor’s influence. And Kaztor will use the Vitality Jar to restore his own body.”

The goal of the three was simple.

“Let’s move now.”

“I hope we could have also obtained the White Rose along the way.”

“It’s mine anyway, so don’t be coveting it.”

When entering the chieftain’s dwelling, the three were a team. However, the moment they exited the chieftain’s dwelling and acquired almost all information about the Arcane Sniper, they ceased to be a team.

They became rivals and foes vying for the position of Arcane Sniper.

Haya, Kidd, and Luger.

Sparks flew from the eyes of the three people. (To be continued…)
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“I won’t back down.”

“That’s my decision.”

“Are we just going to compete with words? I will-”

Before Leeha could finish, Luger disappeared first. Leeha clearly had no match when it came to actions.

“There’s no need to shake hands, right? We’re competitors, but we won’t be pointing guns at each other.”

“Eh… I wouldn’t know about that.”

Kidd activated his Modification skill as well.

Although his response was chillingly cold, his face did not reflect the same coldness.

Witnessing Kidd’s discrepancy between words and actions, Leeha smirked.

“Understood, I’ll keep that in mind. Stay safe. Let’s meet again next time.”

With that, Kidd also vanished.

From the moment the trio unraveled Arcane Bullet’s secret, their goal became clear. Even though no one designated it as a quest, prioritizing tasks was up to them.

“That’s right. Life has no quests. Ugh! First, I’ll check the results of tomorrow’s conclave~ and map out the Resistance’s plans.”

Leeha also activated his Modification skill. In the dim Dark Elf temporary encampment, a faint glow shimmered.

※: ※ ※

“So, what is it, what is it? I feel like I don’t need to tell you beyond that point.”

“Oh, please don’t say it like that. I collect information in my own way too.”

Prea tried to get a bit closer to Chiyou. Chiyou took a step back.

“What kind of information?”


Giving her a side glance, Prea looked around. Among their newly relocated dwellings, this specific room, accessible only to Chiyou, was off-limits even to Igor or Faust. Although it was unlikely anyone else was present, Prea lowered her voice as a precaution.

“It’s about Ha Leeha.”

“Ha Leeha?”

“Yes. Ha, actually, I was on my way to the forest where the Dark spirits live, introduced by Le, but wouldn’t it be someone I’ve seen before passing by there?”

“The Dark spirits? Have you made a contract with them?”

“No, listen to me first. So I went over there and all of a sudden-”

Ha Leeha was passing by. Something caught her eye.

Somewhere along the way, that guy had made a contract with the spirit of ‘Terror’ and had subdued the Dark spirits.

As there was a risk of getting caught if she got any closer, I had no choice but to turn back. Prea gestured towards Chiyou, using every means possible to explain diligently. It was a lie, but a lie mixed with truth.

It even included crucial truths about the current situation, making it something Chiyou couldn’t just ignore and move on from.

“…The spirit of Terror. Prea, did you make a contract with it?”

Chiyou asked, showing interest in Prea’s state. Prea shook her head.

“No. In fact, the reason I am with Bluebeard and Chiyou was all because of those spirits. Where I found them, how I found them… I just wanted to make a contract with those spirits. But I couldn’t go there because of what Ha Leeha did. That’s how it happened.”

Prea let out a deep sigh.

Chiyou looked at Prea, who was bowing her head.

“Is this girl lying again…? Coming back out of the blue like this—no, it’s amazing she came back in the first place. Sasuke said he didn’t tell Prea the location. I wonder how she managed to find her way here. This place is also constantly hidden under a disguise barrier that outsiders can’t discern.

‘Ha Leeha making a contract with the Terror spirit makes sense. Among the things Toon possessed, Bluebeard-nim mentioned something about it sadly slipping through his fingers. If Ha Leeha is the main culprit who killed Toon, it wouldn’t be strange to find something like that among the loot items or achievements. So that story is believable. We need to be careful from now on.’

Chiyou’s mind was spinning at an incredible speed.

How much of what Prea said is true?

Why did this woman suddenly return and start talking about this and that?


“Not being able to acquire the Dark spirits or the Terror spirit… Did you come back just to try and dig up information about other spirits by begging Bluebeard-nim and me?”

“W-why would you think that! How can you say something so rude! I just went out for a little while. Who said anything about leaving.”

Chiyou stared intently at Prea’s black unblinking white eyes. Prea didn’t avoid that gaze.

“I-I don’t know. Since you left without saying anything to anyone in our organization, why should I trust you?”

When Chiyou sharply questioned Prea, she bit her index finger and made a groaning sound.

“You just mentioned that you visited a massive mountain of ice that was impossible to pass through. Did you find anything there?”

“So what?”

“Yamato’s friends are trying every possible method to find a thawing potion, but there are probably only a few people in Middle Earth who can make such a potion.”

“It doesn’t matter. I sent someone to get one of those few people that I happen to know.”

Though Prea spoke firmly, Chiyou’s expression remained unchanged. A potion that could undo any kind of abnormal status and prevent one from getting affected in extreme environments from the start. Who could make such a thing? What profession did they have? Among the diverse professions in Middle Earth and the many outsiders, there was one outstanding individual.

And Chiyou’s soldiers had set off to capture that user.

“There might be an easier way than that.”

As Prea chuckled, Chiyou opened her eyes like a snake.

“You’re still hiding something-”

“Will you come out, ‘Gryphain’?”

Thud…!

What suddenly emerged from Prea’s body was a chilling cold wind.

Chiyou couldn’t help but be surprised as she checked the system window in front of her, confirming various 『abnormal statuses』.

The eyes of the serpent that was about to devour Prea had now turned into the eyes of a rabbit enchanted by Prea’s charm.

“This is… ice? Not water-”


“Tada! Yes, you’re right! It’s the advanced ice elemental, Gryphain! If my other elemental joins in here, then…”

Can you pass through that place you’re talking about?

Prea didn’t say anything more. There was no need to. Chiyou’s lips were turned towards the sky without her realizing.

“From now on… I will not allow unauthorized outings. Do you understand, Prea? When Igor and Faust visit the safe house, always report it. I hope you will keep that promise.”

“I understand! So, when will you depart?”

“For now, shall we go… and see? We need to conduct a test.”

Chiyou stood up from her seat. She didn’t completely trust Prea.

“Let’s start with what I have confirmed: earth, fire, ice. But there should be the basic four elements too. There must be water and wind. How many spirits are we dealing with… and don’t underestimate the Four Nobles this time.”

But her judgment never doubted the usefulness of this spiritualist. Above all, Chiyou possessed overwhelming confidence.

How many spirits does Prea control? How many of them are of high rank? From a common sense perspective, it was essential to classify them into several high-ranking, a few mid-ranking, and a minimal number of top-ranking spirits.

“She might have a top ten look. I have to acknowledge that. But that’s it. Once we get to the castle, we just have to reach there. When we get there… we’ll send her back for two years.”

Deciding how to deal with her will come later. Chiyou was confident in her ability to send her back with “light” if needed.

“Sasuke, as soon as the results of the conclave are out today, take command of the ‘Alchemist’ abduction operation. I have to go somewhere for a while.”

“Understood, oka-san. Besides the Alchemist, the headhunting you mentioned is progressing quite positively.”

“See, told you it wouldn’t be difficult, right? People like that just need a slight push to bend where it hurts. Oh, by the way! If they raise any demands on that end, don’t reject them and report directly to me. You’ll receive a response regarding the personnel increase request from Otto-san today or tomorrow.”

“Got it. I will report back immediately.”

Chiyou smiled warmly, hearing Sasuke’s earnest voice.

“Thank you for your hard work. But things will start to unravel now… Stay strong, Sasuke. Take care.”

“Of course. I came to the New Continent from the beginning to be with Oka-san.”

Prea showed an innocent smile as he looked at Chiyou’s.

“I’m looking forward to it. How cold do you think it will be, hehe.”

“You can look forward to it. Perhaps your esteemed ‘Ice Spirit’ grade might even rise”, Chiyou replied with a warm smile, fostering camaraderie in their conversation. However, amidst the blooming friendship, it was clear that only one person could truly benefit from it.

The Papal Office of Ezwen appeared no different from usual, with people coming and going solely consisting of various administrative personnel handling different tasks.

The most important individuals currently gathered in a small chapel inside the Papal Office, where the door was solemnly locked.

“This is the Conclave… Let’s start by turning on the recording.”

Everyone present there was an NPC.

Kijung was the only user present with the title of “Cardinal”, attending the gathering. By appropriately editing and sharing such scenes, it would serve as a great supplementary income by attracting a special interest.

“Ah, even the outsiders and Rankers from Ezwen are all at the Bishop level. It feels like I made a super high-speed promotion all on my own. You can reach the Bishop level through effort. However, to become a Cardinal and beyond requires something more than just effort”, implying that it would take more than just hard work to achieve.

Kijung, with a strained expression, managed to conceal his feelings. Although the chapel inside the Papal Office was relatively spacious, the atmosphere was so intense that it felt cramped.

Tap, tap. Someone touched Kijung’s shoulder.

“Are you nervous, exorcism Cardinal?”

“If you say you’re not, it would be a lie. And please speak comfortably to me, chugigyeong Romero.”

“It wouldn’t be right for fellow Cardinals to be like that.”

Romero displayed a gentle smile. Kijung could clearly sense the difference in attitude between him and Tusculani just from how they interacted with people.

“But… being good with people and being good at politics are different matters”, Kijung remarked, noticing the sizable crowd gathering around Romero.

Yet, Kijung was observant. The Cardinals surrounding Tusculani were not to be underestimated, even with various users causing chaos, like Cheka. However, they seemed unfazed, maintaining a strong presence during the voting.

Observing the Tusculani camp, Kijung locked eyes with Tusculani himself. Despite a recent incident the night before, Tusculani still greeted Kijung with a gentle smile.

In terms of outward appearances, Tusculani appeared to command respect from those around him.

When the bells chimed, marking 10 AM, Tusculani finally made his way to the altar of the chapel.

“Um, his Eminence has stepped down and left a void for ten days. It was a short period for careful deliberation of a weighty decision, but due to unforeseen circumstances, it was inevitable. I, Tusculani, have been appointed as the chairman of the committee of nine Cardinals overseeing this Conclave”, Tusculani announced, eliciting thunderous applause throughout the chapel.

Kijung was unaware of the developments. Tusculani was overseeing the voting? What does it mean for one of the most prominent candidates to be in charge of the voting process? One Cardinal, who already knew about it, raised his voice, “While Tusculani is the head of the Guard Division in peacetime, it’s undoubtedly Cardinal Romero, whom His Eminence entrusted with ‘succeeding him!’

Why are you silent despite having witnesses?”
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“That makes sense! The one conducting the conclave is the one appointed by the Pope! Surely it should be Cardinal Romero who conducts it!”

Two Cardinals from Council of 9, who supported Romero, spoke up. Opposition immediately arose.

“What a ridiculous statement. How can that be the Pope’s voice! Did you not witness the vile acts committed by that devil?”

“It is clearly stated in the Code of Canon Law! Conducting the conclave is within the authority of the Prefect of the Congregation! It is only natural and appropriate for Cardinal Tusculani, who is the Prefect and Chairman of Council of 9, to conduct it!”

“To stay quiet until the day of the vote and then make such statements, I wonder what kind of sentiment led to that, won!”

Three Cardinals from Council of 9, who supported Tusculani, spoke out.

Tusculani looked troubled, but just before that, he saw Kijung watching him closely. On the day Kaztor initiated the terror, the two Cardinals from Council of 9 who died were also supporters of Tusculani, making their absence all the more regrettable now.

“Cards! Well said! However, the one with the authority above that of the Prefect is none other than the one appointed by the Pope! Naturally, it should be Cardinal Romero-”

“No, I am fine. I believe the Prefect will conduct it well.”

“-Krok, cardinal Romero…”

Romero stepped forward, stopping the Cardinals who supported him.

“Then please proceed, Prefect.”

“Thank you, cardinal Romero.”

Tusculani nodded, capturing the attention of the audience in an instant.

“As you all know, the conclave’s vote is determined by the 120 voting Cardinals, among whom 112 under the age of 80 are eligible candidates for the papacy. It is up to you whom to support among the 112 candidates. However, remember that even the one with the most votes cannot be elected if they do not surpass the majority.”

Tusculani paused for a moment, raising both hands high.

“Furthermore! I ask all voting Cardinals to swear by the Holy Altar. You pledge to elect the most suitable Cardinal for the papacy, not only for the Eswon Diocese but also for the peace of the continent. You also vow not to write your name on the sacred ballot. If you violate this oath, you shall suffer severe consequences as determined by the Holy Altar.”

Everyone followed Tusculani’s lead with the same gesture.

Kijung also raised his hands in worship towards the sky, following Tusculani’s words.


Rules:

1. To be elected as Pope, one must secure the support of the majority (61 Cardinals).

2. Vote for the most deserving candidate.

3. Do not write your own name on the ballot. After the ceremony for the election of the new Pope concluded, it was only then that Tusculani reached for the silver hammer on the podium.

“The papal election, the conclave, shall commence. I swear by the grace of the Lord, there shall be no illegal acts”, he declared, holding the hammer in his hand. In that moment, a tingling sensation ran through Kijung’s mind.

“Illegal acts… Could it be?”

What had fueled Tusculani’s confidence the night before? It was different from simply intending to leverage his accumulated wealth and connections in the Ezwen. Kijung looked at Tusculani. He was not looking back at Kijung but instead tapping the podium three times with the silver hammer.

“Election fraud?”

※ ※ The voting had begun. Kijung too received a gilded blank sheet of paper. The cardinals lined up to nominate their chosen candidate behind a screen and then placed it in the ballot box in front of the Prefect of the Papal Household, who also served as the election overseer.

“The ballot box has been shown to have a clean interior multiple times, and even before being locked, Tusculani had enchanted it with holy magic.”

After repeated checks ensuring there was no foul play, not even the cardinals from the Romero faction harbored any suspicions. The cardinals continued to vote in line.

As he waited for his turn, Kijung constantly scanned his surroundings. Where, what, how could he sabotage the election? Yet, driven by a sudden flash of insight, he realized that deducing and searching with only that basis were insufficient. Leaving the ranks abruptly would draw attention from Tusculani’s entourage, and in this enclosed space, he couldn’t summon any helpers.

“But then again, nothing might happen. Yeah! No matter how human they might be! It’s absurd, where am I?”

It was natural for such thoughts to flicker in Kijung’s mind, veering towards rationalization and a sense of resignation, realizing he might not be able to do anything.

“It’s pointless to say Cardinal Romero’s election as Pope might be voided- that’s even more dangerous. Tusculani kept saying himself, there’s a possibility he might not become Pope from this election. If there were a way to win 100% or if they were planning to use the worst method of election fraud, he would never say such a thing.”

Despite exuding baseless confidence, Tusculani had acknowledged the possibility of losing in this election. While he could solidify his foundation until the next election, it seemed he acknowledged the possibility of losing in this sudden election, due to the ‘underground work’ meticulously laid out from the roots.

“Yeah! Even if it’s a sham, it’s impossible. That’s ridiculous. Instead, they might be subtly pressuring me to make a mistake. Ugh, my head hurts!”

From Tusculani’s proposal to the onset of the conclave, the time was too short. For Kijung, who couldn’t meet advisors like Hyein, Leeha, or Ramhwaryun, it was a painful moment.

“Now, even if I try to put it into words… it would be difficult to convey that feeling accurately – Damn, damn, damn!”

The more he thought about it, Kijung could feel a tingling sensation in his temple.


“Hyein hyungnim must be really struggling. He must be dealing with more than this every single day, right?”Amidst everything, Kijung felt worried about Hyein while being absent-minded. One’s true character cannot be hidden.

“Exorcism Cardinal-nim, it’s your turn next.”

“Oh, yes! Cardinal Romero. Hehe, I was lost in thought for a moment.”

“Haha, being able to think of something else during the conclave. Indeed, you are resolute Holy Knight.”

Romero, standing behind Kijung, burst into a chuckle.

Embarrassed by the pure laughter of admiration devoid of mockery, Kijung felt ashamed. And finally, he entered the polling booth and unfolded the gilded ballot papers.

“Nothing out of the ordinary. Shin Nara-ssi’s Fibiel support shooting was outstanding. They have already submitted documents regarding the establishment of Kaztor Search Team to the Aeswon faction. Having confirmed Pielle’s proactive stance, there should be no wavering in support from Romero’s faction.”

So, they should compete fairly through the vote.

Kijung gripped the prepared pen. Surely, nothing would happen. It’s too late to do anything now.

“The Aeswon people, especially the priests. Ah, they are, as promised, close to god! Like a living, breathing god! They wouldn’t commit any wrongdoings, it’s impossible, they won’t!”

What is the reason behind the swift conclave?

To be elected as the pope, one must obtain more than half of the support. Unless minor factions unite, the leader of that faction cannot be elected.

Moreover, there are Rule 2 and Rule 3 that make it possible.

What is the driving force behind it?

“Not to lie on oath before God! Ultimately, everyone here knows that! It’s the greatest sin. In the end, there won’t be many candidates. According to Cheka’s information, only the Parneja faction among the cardinals insisted on voting for themselves. In the end, mentioning only two or three names is the proper voting flow!”

Romero, Tusculani. Or Romero, Tusculani, Parneja.

Only the names of these three people will be mentioned. Isn’t the race of the Aes exorcists, who cannot keep an oath sworn to God, supposed to move properly even so?

“Write. Writing. I’m writing, casting my precious vote!”

Kijung barely managed to steady his trembling hand.

And then, gritting his teeth, he wrote down the name. Square, square, square.


“Huuu… Is it really this difficult just to write down a name?”

All that was left now was putting the gilded ballot into the ballot box. Kijung pushed it in with a completely drained expression.

“Have you thought carefully before voting, exorcism Cardinal?”

“Yes, of course.”

“You must have had a lot on your mind since being newly appointed.”

“Oh, no, that’s why it was actually easier.”

Tusculani and Kijung exchanged formal greetings in front of the ballot box.

They were smiling at each other, but there was no warmth between them.

“Easy?”

“Yes. Just have to choose the best person without thinking about anything else.”

A faint click, a dull sound of teeth clenching, only heard by Kijung.

“I see. I should vote like that too.”

“I hope you do.”

Kijung put the ballot into the box.

And the moment he withdrew his hand, Kijung saw Tusculani’s eyes.

“Huh?!”

“Thank you for your hard work. Now, let’s move on to the next.”

It wasn’t a gaze mixed with anger.

Though it was just a passing moment, Tusculani’s eyes held an intention to completely devour Kijung. A drop of sweat trickled down Kijung’s back as she turned away from the ballot box near the altar.

“No way… No, it’s all over now. I let go of my hand.”

Following Kijung’s vote, Romero also placed his ballot into the ballot box. It didn’t take long for the successive votes of the cardinals to finish.

“All right! We will close the first round of the conclave vote.”

Kuuuuung… Tusculani first sealed the ballot box. The cardinals, returning to their seats, watched the scene.

“To prevent any irregularities, the counting will be conducted directly here, in front of the voting members, to ensure a result that everyone can agree on. Let us all pray for it.”

Tusculani knelt in front of the ballot box, clasping his hands together. The nine cardinals from the 09 faction, who would assist in the counting, also closed their eyes and clasped their hands.

This place was like a chapel. There were long chairs lined up, and it was natural for the seated cardinals to close their eyes.

Kijung whispered, “Please, please! You know if Tusculani becomes the Pope here, the New Continent will be turned upside down, right, ahlo? Even though it’s just a game we believe in! Wait, isn’t Ahlo the developer? Developer-nim! Please help us!”

He prayed fervently with closed eyes, more intense than anyone else.

Tusculani’s prayer lasted about 1 minute and 40 seconds. When the ritual ended and everyone opened their eyes, the seal on the ballot box was finally broken.

“Let the counting begin.”

The cardinals from the 09 faction prepared a large board. The name with the most votes, ‘Tusculani’, would become the Pope from today.

*”117th vote, Tusculani.”

“Oohhh!”

“He’s one vote ahead!”

“As expected, Tusculani!”

Cheers erupted from the right side of the chapel, while sighs were heard from the left side. Even Kijung, who was observing, couldn’t believe his eyes.

“This is unbelievable, what is this?”

Already, the 117th counting was completed. The current score stood at Romero 57, Tusculani 58. The other neutral factions had a Parneja cardinal who had gained approximately 2 votes.

Most of the small and medium-sized factions had shifted their full support to either Romero or Tusculani, except for the Parneja faction, which declared a fair vote and didn’t align with either side.

However, despite having over 11 members in the Parneja faction, they only managed to secure 2 votes, leading to a silent power struggle within the Parneja faction at the back left of the chapel. Of course, Kijung was not concerned about this. He could understand because even though he was slow at reading the room, he knew.

(To be continued…)
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“Only 3 votes left……”

In reality, the voting had practically come to an end.

Even if Romero adds 3 more votes, he would only have 60 votes. He would not surpass the majority.

If 3 votes are added to Tusculani, it would be exactly 61 votes, a majority.

“C-Cardinal Romero.”

“It’s okay. Don’t be nervous, everything is flowing according to the will of the Lord.”

Instead of showing tension, Romero rather comforted the surrounding supporting factions. Among the visibly tense archbishops, his calm demeanor was a contrast showing composure.

“That’s right. Prepare for the second round of voting.”

“Is it that simple as you say! If three more votes are added now on the other side-”

“The 118th vote, Tusculani.”

Cheers erupted once again.

Unfolding the laminated ballot to show and confirm the name written on it, another line was drawn on the large board.

“The 119th vote, Tusculani.”

The atmosphere had completely shifted by now.

There was only one vote left. The score stood at Romero 57, Tusculani 60.

The chanting hall was engulfed in chaos.

What will happen to the archbishops who had supported Romero until now? If Tusculani becomes the Archbishop, it wouldn’t end with just a ‘greeting of revenge.’

Starting from the moderate faction archbishops already attempting a new balancing act, to the archbishops trembling in unease, the diverse faces of the human factions were seen by the contrast.

And at that moment, the final vote was cast.


“The 120th vote.”

Tusculani looked at the name written on the ballot. Then, he unfolded it before the voting council.

“Tusculani.”

The birth of a new Pope──!

Tusculani! Tusculani!

As a line was drawn next to Tusculani’s name for the 61st vote, everything was over.

“It’s the e… end, the continent is now-.”

“Gaius IV… I can only sympathize with my lack of power. I’m sorry it has come to this.”

With a call to the title of the deceased Pope Gaius IV, Romero closed his eyes. Even the cardinals who had knelt at Romero’s decision looked surprised. Tusculani put on a confident expression. Just at the moment when everyone had given up, a person who had kept their eyes closed since the beginning of the vote count walked forward.

Thud, thud, thud.

“Greetings, Your Holiness. What brings you here, Holy Knight?”

Tusculani, who had already started to act like a pope, receiving congratulatory messages from everyone around him, smiled upon seeing the person approaching him.

In response to Tusculani’s joyful smile, the person shouted at the top of their lungs, “Fraudulent election! This vote is invalid!”

For a moment, every person in the cathedral fell silent.

“What blasphemy is this! How dare a mere special cardinal question the sacred election of the newly appointed Pope!”

Tusculani’s eyes instantly turned red with anger. However, the person did not take a step back.

Even the simple act of nodding their head was not easy. Their body, filled with fury, wanted to rush forward and strike down the sly fox in front of them.

“I can. Since my ballot is missing among the 120.”

“What?! What nonsense is this? All 120 votes have been validated and counted! It’s too late to question now.”

“No! I don’t know how you did it, but the important thing is my vote has disappeared!”


“How do you know it’s your vote! Did it have your name written on it!?”

As Tusculani erupted in anger, the nine faction cardinals joined in accusing the person. After glancing briefly at Romero, who had spoken with a melancholic voice, the person, turned their gaze back to Tusculani. Their face showed determination, indicating all preparations for the upcoming battle were in place.

“Yes, I know my vote.”

“How is that possible! In an anonymous vote, how can you possibly know who-”

“I left my name there.”

“W-what? What!?”

“I wrote my name, personally, because I will be the pope.”

The cathedral was in chaos.

※ ※

“T-this cannot be! How dare you do such a thing in the sacred conclave! Do you not realize this is no joke!”

“Yes, it cannot be. It was not appropriate to do it here. But I did it!”

In a conclave that selects the most sacred person, no one could lie. No one could deceive their conscience. Especially not if they were NPCs.

Therefore, Kijung thought.

If this was a trap, he was the only one who could expose it.

“Rule 3, 『Do not write your name』! I violated that rule and wrote my name! But where is my vote? Why is my name not written on that board!”

Clang, clank, clunk.

Each time Kijung’s plate boots touched the floor, they made a distinct sound. Facing off against Tusculani, Kijung delivered a slap to his face.

“Prove it, cardinal.”

Tusculani’s face turned pale.

Stammering towards the cardinal, Kijung spoke again.


“I cannot use cunning tricks. If there were others, they might have caught your trick in a more elegant way, but I only know how to confront it directly.”

Kijung took a step forward towards Tusculani, as if challenging him.

“Well, I will accept the punishment given by the Lord… so, bring out the real ballot box.”

Tusculani could only step aside unwillingly. Even so, Kijung did not stop.

“Or should I bring it out?”

“S-stop! Stop, you little rascal!”

Tusculani rushed to drag Kijung away. Despite momentarily putting aside his sword and shield, Kijung, being unarmed, was not to be underestimated.

“Still don’t know why I’m a Holy Knight.”

Kijung grabbed Tusculani’s attacking arm and swiftly rotated his body, entwining his lower body deeply into Tusculani’s. There was only one attitude that could come from such a situation.

Kijung with a plate mail, facing Tusculani in a red robe.

Kwoong—–…… A round of Upeochigi.

Tusculani, whose chest was compressed, fainted without even screaming.

“Phew, I didn’t become a tanker for nothing. I’m confident in handling the situation because I did some martial arts training when I was young.”

Kijung didn’t even know who he was talking to but shouted with joy.

Then, as Tusculani began his speech, Kijung dashed towards the stand where he had stood.

“Perhaps here – at the time of the switcheroo, when everyone was praying -!”

Amidst the shattered pieces of wood flying like flower petals from the ‘Body Blow’ inflicted on even Ghibrid like Blaugrunn turned into Ghibrid, there was no way the stand could withstand it. All the Cardinals inside the hall could see it.

“Too- Iyeagi.”

“It’s the polling booth.”

“There’s a polling booth! There’s another one over there!”

Distributing real ballot papers and conducting real voting. Still, Tusculani didn’t care.

Everything had already been completed inside the prepared fake voting booth. The faces of the two Tusculani monks from Unit 09 who conducted the ballot count changed drastically.

It wouldn’t take long to figure out who was involved in this incident. Watching this unfold, Kijung took a deep breath.

“Haah…?”

“Exorcism Cardinal. How… did you end up going on such an adventure? Engaging in such a perilous endeavor…”

Romero approached him.

“You will face punishment. Or rather, blasphemy cannot be overlooked.”

Saying such words, the elder who first expressed concern for Kijung’s well-being made Kijung smile.

“But you told the Exorcism Cardinal.”

“What did I say?”

“You called me a ‘Holy Knight of Strong Will’. I just acted according to my strong will.”

It was a trap, a huge scheme that started that night when Tusculani tried to seduce Kijung.

Why did Tusculani call for Kijung, who was clearly opposed, by what means could he win Kijung over?

The reason he kept hinting to Kijung about the possibility of losing in this election was also to make Kijung lower his guard.

If Kijung wrote ‘Romero’ without any suspicion in this election, he would inevitably fall into the trap. The moment when Kijung was about to write Romero’s name down, and the moment when he tried not to doubt the priests of Ezwen. Could it be that Kijung’s animalistic instinct felt a danger that couldn’t be understood with the head? And isn’t the will leading Kijung’s actions almost entirely based on instincts?

The result was that it led to writing his own name.

“Sigh… It’s better to use the body. Let’s really… stop fighting with our heads.”

Kijung sprawled out inside the sacred sanctuary.

Tusculani, surrounded by Romero’s supporters, naturally had the outcome of the new voting: Tusculani with 31 votes, Parnaje with 6 votes, master Kay with 1 vote, and Romero with 82 votes.

Shortly after, white smoke rose from the central tower of the Ezwen Papacy. A new Pope who would inherit the will of the former Pope Gaius IV was born.

“Ugh, it’s finally over! It should be fine with the emergency communication network, search range, and delegation of tasks to each paleo… The problem is who the ‘human’ actually responsible for this will be… Haaa.”

Stretching while yawning, he organized the documents in front of him. Kidd and Luger were already scouring the area for Kaztor’s traces, while he could only move a step slower.

***

“Luger is heading east. Well, it’s most rational to start from the last place we met.”

It was midnight, so Luger, who was waiting in front of the Dark Forest, saw the sun finally passing through the forest. His destination was obvious without looking. He would search near the place where he first encountered the household.

“Come to think of it, if the one who first picks up the rifle of the deceased Arcane Sniper becomes the next Arcane Sniper… doesn’t that mean Kyle has to die? Hm, even if I meet Elizabeth or Brown right now… what would they say, what kind of reaction would they show?”

Bursting into a chuckle unintentionally, he thought, “That’s absurd. Getting a new skill from Brown was indeed effective, but before even inserting a new bullet, he’d likely have a bullet in my head from Elizabeth.”

Another of the three musketeers was approaching in a different way.

“Is Kidd starting over from the Gorilla paleo side?”

Having waited for days in a place where Kaztor might appear, now even the possibility of Kaztor showing up was slim, and didn’t they already investigate every nook and cranny of Kaztor’s laboratory thoroughly?

“Do I really have to double-check such a place? Well, detail-oriented is what’s needed.”

Quickly organizing the documents, he prepared to leave.

Kijung: Hahaha. Come quickly, eung-ah! It’s a complete festival – chaos, chaos.”

Leeha: Got it. No coronation ceremony or anything like that, right? You’ve ascended to Pope – well, that’s all over! Romero, the priest, is now Pope Urbano II!”

Hearing Kijung’s anxious voice, Leeha unconsciously smiled. It was all because Romero becoming Pope and creating a new pseudonym, which kept Kijung chattering for over two hours about the “Operation to Reveal Election Fraud.”

“My heart is pounding just from listening. Well… Gotta admit, Kijung is truly ignorant.”

It was a behavior close to a trap investigation entirely based on intuition and instinct.

(To be continued…)
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“Does it feel that good even though you’re receiving a punishment?”

Cardinal Kijung, who violated the sacred rules of the Conclave, was to be recorded as the first cardinal to be punished by Romero, who newly assumed the position of Pope under the name Urban II.

‘Hehe, in the name of the Lord, I hereby punish the exorcist cardinal, so that you may always stand at the forefront against the threat of the Demon King’s Army… Truly, he is no ordinary old man.’

No matter how fearful he was, the punishment of Urban II was to not abandon the battlefield. It was a form of advice and a request, and it was also an expected duty and a personal wish for Kijung, who was already a “Holy Knight” and an “Exorcism Cardinal.”

Leeha activated the crystal ball to immediately move to the Vatican.

Many people Leeha knew had already gathered there.

“You should have seen it. Cardinal Romero, no, Pope Urban II, just stood in front of Tusculani, and that was it, the game was over. Talking about showing his power or something… His priestly life is essentially over.”

“As expected of Kijung! When it comes to guts, he’s a man I recognize!”

“It was extremely dangerous… but well, since it turned out well.”

“Be careful, master Kay. If your head gets chopped off, the citizens of Fibiel will also be in danger.”

Those huddled together to listen to Kijung’s endless feats included not only the members of Byulcho.

The Hwahong guild, accompanied by both Ram Hwajung and Ram Hwajung, as well as the Shin Nara and Sacred Knight Orders were also there to offer their congratulations on behalf of Fibiel.

“Wow, this is truly a feast.”

“Oh, hyung!”

With Leeha’s presence, the festivities naturally rose to a higher pitch.

Passing words of hardship to Kijung, Leeha did not forget his primary task.

“This is the resistance operation plan. There are still some things lacking, but if the Pope approves this, we can execute it immediately.”

“Okay! I’ll go tell him right away.”

Kijung carefully accepted the folder and tucked it away in his bag.


While Leeha was tracking Kaztor’s footsteps, much had also transpired in Fibiel.

The day the trio entered the Mage Division Leader’s laboratory, several things were already finalized: the establishment of the 〈Kaztor Search Party〉 and the decision on 〈New Continent Dispatch Personnel〉! This time, it was a much larger-scale operation than the previous dispatch of a few knight orders to the new continent.

“This time we won’t be left behind! Instead of just sending a few guild members to support Hwajung, we plan to be fully involved.”

“Phew, the full involvement of Hwahong is both terrifying and reassuring somehow.”

“What? We need to aim high for our goal! First, we need to get Hwajung into the top 5!”

Ram Hwajung, more excited than usual, snapped her fingers.

Always showing a thorough and business-like image beyond her years, it felt rather new to Leeha to see this side of Ram Hwajung. Her ability to make precise decisions was clear, as she was now strategizing to push Hwajung one rank higher, considering he was currently in 6th place.

“Are you implying that you plan to challenge Petyr’s ranking?”

As Leeha, who was still clutching his chest, turned to look, a man had somehow slipped into the group unnoticed. Despite the slight shift in atmosphere, Leeha remembered his face.

“Is that you, Cheka?”

“It’s been a while, Ha Leeha.”

“Oh, yes. You recognized me back then.”

Cheka didn’t greet Leeha as if meeting him for the first time.

He was one of those who had early noticed Leeha hiding outside the window during the secret meeting at the Vatican. His movements were different from those of someone like Kidd, reminiscent of Petyr or Bluebeard.

However, the point was not his movements.

“Ram Hwajung, I’ll ask once more. Aiming to place Hwajung in the top five means challenging Petyr’s ranking, doesn’t it?”

His mechanical tone and the ideology reflected in his words made Leeha feel the danger the man posed.

Ram Hwajung locked eyes with Cheka. She had already returned to her usual composed self, not suppressed by Cheka’s presence, but merely startled by his sudden appearance like a jump scare in a horror movie.

“If Hwajung makes it to the top five, it’s only natural that Petyr would drop to rank six, don’t you think?”

Cheka’s eyes lit up at Ram Hwajung’s response.


His long, flowing black coat, whose material was hard to identify, caught Leeha’s eye, as it didn’t flutter despite its weight.

“Hwahong Guild has outstanding power, but I’m not aware of them having enough strength to establish a new foundation in the New Continent. Could it be the infinite funds backing you?”

“What…?”

“I won’t just stand by and watch. I am a citizen of Minis.”

“What does that mean…?”

Ram Hwajung furrowed her brow. Though neither of them gave off a confrontational vibe, as they were in the Vatican plaza, the atmosphere was far from friendly.

If they were outside, Cheka’s remarks suggested he might have already made a move.

“Excuse me, Cheka-nim?”

“Hm?”

“Well, your words don’t make much sense. Isn’t ranking competition natural in Middle Earth? And what does your being a citizen of Minis have to do with Petyr dropping to sixth place? Are you saying you’re protecting Petyr’s rank for Minis’ national dignity?”

“Isn’t that obvious?”

“Hmm, thinking that way complicates things even more. Anyone can see that you seem weaker than Petyr, Cheka-nim. How does it make sense for a weaker person to protect a stronger one?”

Leeha’s Black Bass was slung over his shoulder.

While the atmosphere wasn’t explicitly combative, Leeha couldn’t stay still knowing Cheka’s movements were abnormal, and his statements inconsistent.

‘Jellypong, move slowly… Bring Toon Claw Dagger from my bag as close as you can.’

『Myong.』

Leeha knew that engaging Cheka with brute force wouldn’t work.

If so?

‘Stab him. If it’s a skill-fueled move, just grazing him should be enough to immobilize him.’

Jellypong’s tentacle-like appendage stealthily reached into Leeha’s bag.


Cheka wasn’t watching this. He seemed more affected by Leeha’s direct confrontation.

“Am I weaker than Petyr?”

“What? What are you saying?”

This was not the expected reaction from someone in his position, and thus Leeha was left bewildered. According to Kijung, Cheka was a highly mafia-like figure, willing to do whatever it took to achieve the desired outcome.

But his current behavior didn’t align with that characterization.

The fact that Cheka attended the secret meeting in Aez to protect the king of Minis indicated he possessed a certain degree of skill and status.

‘But what is this? Is he even human?’

As the two men stood facing each other with strange expressions, someone ran toward them swiftly.

“Hey there! Oh, Cheka, you’re here!”

“The Knight of the Rainbow.”

“Lark-ssi?”

Lark gave a simple nod to Leeha and then linked arms with Cheka.

“Cheka? We have our own party. Why are you mingling with the people from Fibiel? Let’s go.”

“I haven’t finished my conversation—”

“Alright, everyone! Leeha, Ram Hwajung, you’ve all done a great job! Make sure to congratulate Master Kay for me! And I hope there will be another opportunity for you, Ram Hwajung. Oh, by the way, Leeha, you might want to put that dagger away. No need to escalate things on a good day. Okay? Bye now!”

“—Wait—a minute—”

Lark rambled energetically and dragged Cheka away. Despite trying to say something to Leeha and Ram Hwajung, Cheka did not resist.

‘Did Lark say something to stop him just now?’

Leeha saw it. As Cheka, who was resisting, suddenly became docile, Lark’s lips were moving slightly.

Had he told him to stop? But would Cheka, a man of such a stubborn character, really stop just because he was told to?

“Who is that guy? He’s so irritating. It’s like he knows everything about our guild.”

“He probably did investigate us.”

“Huh? Who is he anyway? I’ve never seen his face in the Outsiders List.”

“I don’t know. But he’s definitely a user. More like an outsider… Anyway, he’s someone Lark sent as a ‘helper.’”

Ram Hwajung was visibly upset. It was understandable; some stranger had insulted her guild and her sibling.

“Ugh, it’s so annoying. We’ll just have to show our strength on the New Continent to make sure that guy regrets it.”

“Hmm, do you have a plan? What he said wasn’t entirely wrong. The New Continent is essentially a battlefield. It won’t be easy to grow through administration or commerce alone.”

Even though Jasung is relatively high-level and has support troops exclusively for Ram Hwajung within Hwahong, it’s still insufficient.

Ram Hwajung was well aware of this. She had realized it painfully during her negotiations with Shin Nara earlier.

“That’s exactly the problem. If I had a proper position, I might be able to contribute, but it’s hard to take any action. The so-called ‘Kaztor Search Party’ of Fibiel is entirely composed of combat forces, leaving no space for someone like me. Isn’t there any management role available?”

“Wait, what?”

“What’s wrong?”

At that moment, something clicked in Leeha’s mind. A job? A management position?

What was Ram Hwajung’s specialty? What had she been doing in Middle Earth until now?

“Kijung! Kijung!”

Leeha urgently called for Kijung. Kijung, who had been chatting with others a bit further away, quickly ran over.

“What’s up, hyung?”

“Hand me that thing from earlier.”

“That thing??”

“The documents!”

Scratching his head in slight confusion, Kijung pulled out the folder from his bag. Leeha swiftly took it from him and handed it to Ram Hwajung.

“Ram Hwajung!”

“Uh, yes?”

“There’s a job for you. Right here. An important position that only someone with your level of skill can handle.”

『Operation to Establish a Resistance Using the Spirits and paleo of the New Continent: Code-named “Partisan Operation”』

“This… a partisan operation?”

“It’s a blend of ‘paleo’ and ‘Partisan.’ We coined the term ‘Partisan’—easier to remember that way.”

“Hmm, what can I do here?”

Even as she accepted the folder and quickly flipped through it, Ram Hwajung’s expression brightened. She asked what she could do, but she already had a good idea just from a single glance.

“You can do a lot. For instance, a position like this.”

『Organizational Chart』

Supreme Commander

Headquarters Administration and Operations General Manager: 『TBD』

Field Strategy and Tactics Coordinator: Koba (Sacred Spirit of the bonobo paleo)

Leeha pointed to the spot marked 『TBD』.”

“It’s a role overseeing guerrilla operations and necessary supplies from headquarters, essentially a ‘chief manager’ on the human side.”

“Do you think this project will get approved if I take that position?”

“The proposal is initiated by me, and the draft will be done by Kijung—no, master Kay. That’s more than enough.”

(To be continued…)
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Ram Hwayeon didn’t think for long. How many simulations had already run through her head?

Ram Hwayeon smiled faintly and extended her hand, which Leeha grasped in return.

“… This time, I’ll have to do it myself. Alright, I’ll accept it.”

“Yes, thank you very much, ran Hwayeon.”

Ram Hwayeon’s face turned a shade of red for no reason.

They both knew that such an opportunity to subtly hold hands with Leeha was just the beginning. It was regrettable that Leeha hadn’t noticed the subtle signals at all.

“The eldest daughter of the largest conglomerate group in Hong Kong, Ram Long, being the leader of the 〈Partisan〉. Though there’s a slight difference in nuance… Given that she was preoccupied with such thoughts, it was natural that she couldn’t feel the touch of the hand she was holding.

Even after that, the old continent remained busy for quite some time.

Cardinal Romero, who became “Pope Urban II”, sent personal letters to the kings of each country, requesting large-scale new continent dispatch forces, with Leeha’s plan at the forefront. Due to this, even Pibiel, which was already preparing, had to urgently organize troops, as well as Minis, Shazrashian, and Kraven.

Leeha also had meeting after meeting with various spirits, including Koba, the head of the Western paleo tribe of the new continent, to introduce Ram Hwayeon and familiarize her with the operation, leaving no time to catch a breath.

“Huuu… Finally, I’m near where Hows-hows is located.”

Luger had enough time to pass through the Dark Forest and reach the place where Elizabeth and Brown were located.

“Of course, it wouldn’t be here. I know that.”

Luger pulled out the Cobalt Blue Python and inserted a bullet. He wasn’t here to look for traces of Elizabeth and Brown.

‘Hows-hows. The couriers of the new continent. I’ll use them to track Elizabeth.’

Where could they have gone? It was obvious when you thought about it.

No matter how fast they moved, could they have traveled just by walking? Luger’s thought was different.

“Ugh… Kyle is with them.”

A group containing someone with a frail body can’t move quickly. Given that, what could they have chosen to do next?


“Traveling using Hows-hows. The problem is those creatures… Unfortunately, those oddly shaped drone creatures don’t communicate with humans.

A new species that uses a language humans can’t understand but seems to understand nonetheless—perhaps their intelligence surpasses that of humans.

‘That doesn’t matter. The important thing is—hmm?’

Luger, who believed that pointing a gun at something would make any conversation possible, had no choice but to hide for now. Ugh… I smell something. What’s that?

The vicinity of the Hows-hows ‘depot’ had a different atmosphere than usual.

Luger cautiously peeked out.

“They definitely said there were several places Hows-hows used as headquarters. They said those places don’t change easily. It’s a waypoint for users in the eastern part of the new continent. But now… there were no Hows-hows creatures to be seen here.

Could they have moved to another depot all at once? That seemed inappropriate.

As Luger held his breath and looked around, a peculiar sound reached his ears.

It came from the air. However, it wasn’t the characteristic tentacle sound of Hows-hows, which rotates like a helicopter’s rotor.

Flap… Flap… Flap…

The sound of something much larger than a bird flapping in the air. Luger raised his head abruptly.

“What in the world!?”

What was flying above the trees was a monster Luger had never seen before.

It had the head and body of a lion without a mane and wings like a bat’s membrane.

Their sizes varied, but the smaller ones had scorpion tails, while the larger ones had tails resembling snake heads, flying through the sky.

“There are not just one or two. These are monsters I didn’t see the last time I came. Have new monsters spawned all of a sudden? Or did Brown clean up the surroundings last time?”

Usually, Luger would have said, ‘A new creature, huh? Spit it all out and die!’ and fired, but now, he had to remain quiet.

His animal instincts were telling him so.

Although they were new monsters, they were undoubtedly dangerous.


“There are many of them. Just from the fleeting shadows, there are more than twenty. I have no choice but to bypass them. As carefully as possible.”

Luger lowered his stance while watching the sky.

His intention to move quietly and avoid making any noise was shattered in an instant.

Crack… Crack! Boom…~

The sound coming from afar was definitely not normal noise.

Should he consider it the sound of footsteps? However, Luger didn’t want to think about it.

It sounded more like the noise made by a giant machine bulldozing through the forest itself than footsteps.

“This isn’t a place where construction or anything similar would occur. And suddenly, in a place where even large monsters don’t inhabit?”

The difference from the last time was too stark! Could it be that things change so much depending on whether Brown and Elizabeth are present or not?

Luger didn’t think so. It was natural to suspect a connection between the absence of the Hows-hows creatures and the sudden appearance of these monsters.

“〈Hawk Eyes〉”

Luger wasn’t an heir to 『Accuracy』, but he had at least one skill related to scouting.

Activating Hawk Eyes, which provided enough effect, albeit less potent than Eagle Eyes, he caught sight of a ‘group’ in the distance.

“That… What is that…?”

However, Luger couldn’t put it into words. They were monsters of shapes he had never seen before. Monsters walking right next to him had different shapes and colors, making it impossible to identify what they were made of.

“No, I’ve seen them before. Not exactly the same, but I’ve definitely seen them. Those must be…”

Luger swallowed dryly. They were monsters he had encountered once on the ‘old continent’. Their appearance was like a random mix of various living and non-living things or monsters and flora and fauna.

Though it was impossible to figure out their original forms, that was precisely the ‘feature’ of these monsters!

“Chimera. The most intact being is probably the one leading those Chimeras.”

The Chimeras seemed indifferent to whether there was a forest or not. They just kept walking straight.


If there was a tree, they crushed it, if there was a rock, they corroded it, if there was an animal, they devoured it. At the forefront of those Chimeras was the only recognizable monster.

『A… Human…?』

Wrapped in bandages, it looked at Luger and spoke.

“Words? A talking Chimera? Are you the leader?”

Luger swallowed. His instincts already presented the ‘result’. In the sky was an unknown flying monster. Ahead was an incredibly powerful monster and an unidentifiable group.

He was in the new continent’s eastern region, where spatial movement was impossible.

‘I won’t be able to leave this place. I won’t be able to escape from that unknown monster.’

“But that doesn’t mean I can run away. I need to at least land a blow to feel less regretful about dying.”

Luger moved quickly.

After removing the originally inserted bullet, he rapidly pulled out a new type of bullet from his bag and loaded it into the barrel.

The new attack method that had surprised Leeha and Kidd in the temporary settlement of the Dark Elves wasn’t limited to just ‘skills’.

“Let’s see how much you can take. The distance is merely 180, set the timer to 0.18 seconds.”

Click!

With a slightly different loading sound than usual, Luger raised the barrel.

“I was told that I don’t need to hit it further, because 『Pierce』 aims to shatter the enemy and even burn its guts. Die. 〈Wing Stabilizer: High-Explosive Incendiary Shell〉”

The bullet, accompanied by a backwind, split as soon as it was fired.

The small bullets that emerged from the single bullet had little wings, ensuring they did not lose propulsion and charged towards the direction of the energy!

Naturally, with a flight time of just 0.18 seconds and a detonator explosion built-in, it was impossible for human eyes to track the bullet’s trajectory.

What Luger and the surrounding living creatures saw was just one thing.

Luger pulled the trigger, something was fired with tremendous momentum, and an enormous curtain of fire swept over the front, immediately!

“Ha ha ha! I already know that you guys are weak against fire!”

“Screeeeech—eeek—”

“Were you planning to attack from the air? How dare you target me! 〈Gun Enhancement: Anti-Air Cannon Bazooka〉”

Another enhancement system of Luger’s that not even Leeha and Kidd had seen.

An attack mode of 〈Cobalt Blue Python〉 specialized for flying monsters evolved from field artillery and howitzers!

“Dieeeeee!”

Gunfire, gunfire, gunfire—

Luger fired haphazardly towards the sky.

Due to the curtain of fire generated in the front, the Chimera couldn’t approach, so there was nothing else for him to worry about.

“You bald-headed lion bastards, you dare challenge Luger—”

『Usable—』

“What the…?”

Rrrrrrr, amidst his frantic firing towards the sky, Luger saw a bizarre scene.

The curtains of fire he had seen at the edge of his vision began to be extinguished with a tremendous force.

“W-What? Incendiary shells can’t be extinguished with mere water or ice element skills…”

These special fires couldn’t even be extinguished by magic of water or ice attributes, the very shells he received from Brown!

Luger looked ahead in disbelief.

But he had no more words left. The bandaged mummy-like monster didn’t use water or ice element magic.

“That body… no, I sensed it from the first sight. You—”

Looking at the ‘jet-black lump of flesh’ forming inside the completely burnt bandaged human shape, Luger realized what the monster in front of him was.

“Ghibrid… a Demon King’s Fragment, 〈Chimera Nest〉.”

Ghibrid walked towards Luger, unconcerned about the fire. The flames in its path were all absorbed into its body.

『I will… personally… combine—』

“Personally? You will personally face me? Ha! What an honor. I’ll give you what Bluebeard got, 〈JagdPanzer Cannon—”

Swish—! Just when Luger was about to turn the barrel and use the skill, his face contorted.

He had been too focused on Ghibrid before him and had failed to sense the fast-approaching flying monster behind him.

“Ugh, what is this…?”

『Fusion of Manticore (Scorpion) begins.』

『Abnormal Status: Poison (Enhanced) applied.』

『1? decreases by 10% every 10 seconds for 2 minutes.』

『Abnormal Status: Paralysis (Enhanced) applied.』

『Unable to move for 5 minutes.』

‘A Manticore— no, what is this… without a healer around, I’ll just die!’

His vision blurred immediately after being stabbed. This meant the attack itself did not cause severe damage!

However, in the current situation with no one to help, the status ailments were fatal.

『Upon death, fusion with surrounding organic/inorganic materials occurs.』

『Upon Fusion with Manticore, special abilities are randomly determined.』

“Fusion? So Chimera Syndrome isn’t made by Ghibrid himself. Special abilities? Copy of—”

Despite experiencing this perplexing situation for the first time, Luger quickly grasped the reality.

Due to the poisoned state, his vision rapidly darkened.

『From Manti—— Ora…』

Through his darkened vision, Luger saw the approaching figure of Ghibrid.

Though his hearing was gradually failing, Luger could hear something landing next to him with a flapping sound.

“Get lost, Ghibrid— do you think I’ll die? I can explode you right now.”

『Good will—』

Dozens of mouths appeared on Ghibrid’s body. All of those mouths were laughing. They seemed satisfied with Luger’s words.

(Continued…)
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A scream that sent chills down one’s spine erupted right next to Luger’s ear, whether it was the roar of a lion, the ultrasonic waves of a bat, or the pinpoint of a bird.

“Chain teleport. Damn it, I have to let someone know…”, only then did Luger realize that he had to inform someone.

But the chain teleport was once again inactive. He had already passed the Kaztor incident and had set out to find Elizabeth and Brown first, so he had no desire for anyone to follow him.

“Even if it’s just words-”

With less than 20% of his field of vision left, Luger attempted to speak.

『Gather… Manticore-』

If he didn’t feel an immense pain in that moment, he would have surely communicated with Leeha and Kidd.

“Ahhh-!”

Luger’s eyes widened.

『Ghibrid synthesis is commencing.』

『During Ghibrid synthesis, the most powerful skill will be copied.』

『If possessing up to 30% of the maximum ???, synthesis will begin.』

『Synthesis commencing』

『Designated target: Manticore』

『Copying skill: 『Pierce』』

“Damn it- S#! This-”

Luger tried to glare at Ghibrid as hard as he could, but he could no longer see anything. The synthesis chosen by Ghibrid was different from creating a typical chimera.

With unfamiliar sounds, Luger’s body began to melt, and the Manticore that had stabbed him floated on top of the melted puddle of body fluid dripping from Luger.

For several minutes, the room filled with smoke and a strong odor, and in that place, a completely new type of monster that had never been seen before was born.


『Go to the west…』

Ghibrid, who still spoke sporadically, turned Luger into a Manticore synthesis monster and began to head towards the west.

Following behind him were numerous chimeras created by the Manticores.

※ ※

“Well, that’s the basics done! Can you handle it?”

“Well, it’s simple. How many days did it take you to come up with a plan like this?”

“Haha, to you it may seem simple, Leeha-ssi. But the person who devised it thought their head was going to explode.”

As Leeha made a bewildered expression, ran Hwayeon also gave a light chuckle. No matter how capable she was, the Resistance operation plan that encompassed all the Paleos in the western part of the New Continent was definitely not something that could be perceived as simple.

Leeha wanted to find any gaps in the plan and supplement them, but he found it hard to pinpoint any major ‘holes’ to patch up, which made him stutter instead.

“Then, Koba-ssi, I’ll entrust you with Ram Hwayeon here from now on.”

“Haha, it’s surprising that you trust a human female this much.”

“Wh-what? Human female? I told you not to call me that last time, didn’t I?”

“Come on, please! At a critical moment when the top two individuals responsible for headquarters administration and field command were about to clash, what would happen!”

Leeha managed to separate Ram Hwayeon and Koba, who were about to get into a heated argument. Although he had been to the New Continent a few times, experiencing this level of quick adaptability in person was quite remarkable!

“Well, for Ram Hwayeon, this is just ‘work.’

If you call it ‘business’, there are definitely people around her much more fearsome than Koba. Ram Hwayeon, who was unparalleled in handling work efficiently, never lagged behind Koba, and even though Koba possessed the power to ‘kill at will’ anytime, he never dared to provoke her.

“I keep my promises. With the approval directly from 『Pope』 and 『Holy Knights』, the two highest authorities among humans, thanks to you, Leeha.”

“Phew, that’s right. I just hope you continue to watch over us. Oh! There’s one more thing we promised, right?”

As Leeha extended his hand with a smile, Koba’s eyebrow twitched slightly.

“I’m just lending it.”


“Yes, that’s enough. Just for a week! I’ll return it once I’m done.”

“Well… I don’t expect those bearded dwarves to do anything anyway.”

Koba carefully took out something. One was a ‘bolt-action rifle’ made by the bonobo Paleos.

Producing and distributing that in mass quantities could completely change the way the musket wielders of this land were treated.

“Crazy to think I’d do that for you, haha.”

And another one was a ‘Cobalt Blue Python.’

Koba handed it to Leeha, along with its blueprint. It was akin to the bonobo Paleos dismantling and studying Luger’s firearms, sharing all the ‘know-how’ with Leeha.

“Thank you!”

“You didn’t sit me down here just to get this, did you?”

“W-would I do that! Ram Hwayeon-ssi, you wanted it too! You were recognized for your contributions in handling that huge supply route during the national war, so they approved it directly at the Fibiel Palace! Isn’t that right?”

“Hong, not only that, but you’re trying to distance yourself from me for no reason-”

-In a dark forest. Can you make it in 3 hours?

“Hmm???

It was then. A strange yet familiar voice echoed in Leeha’s mind. In an instant, Leeha recognized the other person speaking.

– Prea?

– Are you listening?

“Oh, uh? Yeah. Okay then, I’m fine with that too.”

“Fine… with what?”

“Right. Ram Hwayeon-ssi, I think I need to go now as something urgent came up. Koba! Please take care of the western border from now on.”

“Well, we’re happy to do so. Let’s see how you handle the human female.”


Leeha exchanged a handshake with Koba and immediately activated a teleportation spell.

Even though Leeha said he was leaving, even when Koba mentioned ‘human female’, Ram Hwayeon showed no reaction. It was because Leeha only responded with a simple “okay” to her final words.

Shwooosh… Leeha disappeared in a flash of azure light.

“I distinctly remember us agreeing to spend December 31st together.”

Ram Hwayeon murmured quietly.

＊※%*

“Leeha-nim, hi!”

“Blaugrunn.”

“I still don’t sense any presence of spirits around here. Looks like they’re not coming.”

“Yeah, I’m aware of that too.”

Leeha called Blaugrunn and wandered around the dark forest. It had been over ten days since he infiltrated the vicinity with Prea. Why reach out now?

“I thought you had given up playing the spy. Couldn’t bear to abandon the spirit of nature after all? Or… are you planning to reveal everything to Chiyou and Sasuke, luring me out? Of course, in that case, Prea will never be able to contract with dark spirits ‘forever’.”

The only key Leeha has that could handle her is that. Therefore, as soon as she decides to give up the dark spirit, he’ll be at risk.

“But I have to consider that possibility as well. Maybe Chiyou baited her with the promise of another spirit instead of giving up the spirit of nature. Chiyou… she’s not someone to be taken lightly.”

The biggest worry for Leeha was that Prea was watching Chiyou.

If Leeha spoke a single wrong word or make one wrong move, Prea will immediately turn against him for bringing Chiyou into the mix.

『Mana Clairvoyance』

『Mana Detection』

If he couldn’t sense the spirit’s energy, he had to check if they’ve used invisibility or transformation. Leeha and Blaugrunn had been at it for over an hour already.

“The surroundings are clear.”

“Well, we still have about 40 minutes until the meeting time. If they were planning to set a trap, they would have come early to set it up. It doesn’t seem like that’s the case.”

“Ha Leeha-nim, you are quite something.

‘We’ would’nt fall for traps set by them.”

“Oh? Are you including yourself now? In the past, you would have only said ‘you’. Blaugrunn, you’ve matured a lot!”

Leeha chuckled and ruffled Blaugrunn’s hair.

Blaugrunn was a dragon at the Juvenile-class, quick to brush off the touch but could not hide his cheerful expression. Once a hapless little one, Blaugrunn now, deep down, acknowledged Leeha.

“It’s still early. It’s not even the time for dark spirits to come out. If they planned to ambush us, they would have said, ‘Let’s meet in the evening.’

If they wanted to release ‘the policy of lifting the ban on the contract with the dark spirits by using the influence of Chiyou and Yamato and threatening Leeha’, they would have aimed for when the dark spirit appeared.

If it’s neither of those, then Leeha only had one option. To trust and wait.

About 35 minutes passed, and just 5 minutes before the appointed time, Prea appeared.

“It’s been a while, Prea-ssi. I was worried something had happened since I didn’t hear from you.”

“Hehehee, really? But I’ve had a hard time too. You just wouldn’t believe me, and besides, if I’m going to meet Ha Leeha again, there should be some ‘excitement’, right? Don’t you think?”

With a blink that seemed far from ‘cuteness’, could someone look so much like a child?

Leeha looked at the forlorn expression of the white-eyed elf with a wry smile.

“You still talk so fluently. So, what’s the story?”

Honey. The sound of Prea swallowing saliva reached Leeha.

“I found an amazing… place.”

“An amazing place?”

“Nes…”

Shortly after, when Prea began to tell a new story, Leeha silently cheered in his mind.

***

“Gryphain! Can you protect us from the cold?”

A gust of wind carried Prea’s voice, barely audible. The shimmering light emanating from the spirit who took the form of a white-haired girl flowed towards Chiyou and Prea.

“Is this good enough?”

“Well… it’s not bad.”

Chiyou barely managed to hide her expression as she looked at Prea who was asking as if pulling out teeth. Even for the master of the poker face, the ‘buff’ that Gryphain had provided was so impressive that her eyes widened.

“The superior spirits like the Ice Spirit… I once heard that spirits such as Light and Dark should be considered one level higher than the four major elemental spirits. Could it be that all ‘non-four elemental’ spirits are like that?”

Even with the information Chiyou had known so far, intermediate spirits like Light and Dark were said to possess strength similar to that of the superior spirits of the four major elemental spirits. But is it just Light and Dark? The ‘Ice Spirit’ shown by Prea was an unknown spirit to begin with. It was even a mystery that such a thing existed in the first place! Categorizing the Ice Spirit shown by Chiyou as one of the ‘non-four elemental’ spirits alongside Light and Dark and quickly deducing the hierarchical system of spirits was only natural. Most importantly, Gryphain was showing abilities close to the top-grade spirits of the four major elements.”

“As long as there are no abnormalities, there shouldn’t be any significant restrictions on movement. We can get closer.”

Chiyou quickly rushed up the mountain. Prea hurriedly followed behind her.

“Since we’ll keep getting attacked, be careful!”

“Yes, understood!”

“Our goal is that castle near the peak! We must get to that castle!”

“What castle? Ahh, snowball! Watch out for the snowball in front!”

“Tsk! It seems there’s a wicked woman among them. Have you already realized that there are no abnormalities?”

Chiyou chewed her lip as she stared at the castle. More precisely, she was targeting a presence within the castle.

“Woman? What woman?!”

“You don’t need to know! Just follow me quietly!”

With a leap, one jump could mean saving a life. The massive snowballs seemed to endlessly fall, and the crevasses in between them were no small matter to navigate.

In this moment of rushing forward without any hesitation, the only thing to trust in was Prea’s spirits!

“G-Gryphain! The ground below! The ground! The ground!”

*Thud!*

“Ugh!”

Prea plunged into a pit created by Gryphain’s ice floor. As a spirit profession that wasn’a particularly adept at physical movements, she couldn’a keep up with Chiyou’s actions, even though Chiyou herself found it difficult after escaping from the inferno of abnormalities.

“Perhaps flying through the air would be the easiest, but it might be too slow considering the circumstances!” (To be continued…)
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Levitation or flying were slow.

It may be easy to avoid traps like crevasses, but if the number of snowballs increases, it will become a fatal friendly fire. That’s why Chiyou didn’t bring any mages from Yamato’s group.

If Prea wasn’t around in the first place, they would have all fallen into a fatal situation.

“Phew, that’s enough for today.”

“What? Are we stopping here?”

Chiyou had to turn around with a grim expression.

Although they had climbed more than when they came with Bluebeard last time, they still had a long way to go to reach the castle.

“There’s no need to be greedy right now. It’s not like it’s a deadline… If it’s a rescue mission, they’ll keep replenishing the troops.”

“Who are you going to bring along?”

“Well, you’ll see when you meet her later, won’t you? Hmph.”

Chiyou shrugged and turned away. Prea also turned around accordingly.

***

Prea relayed Chiyou’s words to Leeha in full, allowing Leeha to extract significant information from their conversation.

‘That cunning woman… I can’t tell who it is. But the expression clearly must have come from Bluebeard to Chiyou. In that case, the target narrows down to two at this point.’

The ‘Blood Maiden’ Bathory.

And the Demon King’s Fragment whose gender has yet to be confirmed, Pyrot Cocri. Bluebeard had discovered one of the two. But why isn’t she trying to awaken either one of them?

Even when Leeha asked, Prea shook her head. Chiyou had said that he didn’t provide that much information.

“I told you. I’m still under suspicion. I only appeared briefly today, so if I stay too long, won’t I be exposed?”

“Ugh, do you remember the location at least?”


“Of course! Even if I don’t remember, – Noeanen remembers it for me.”

“Hmm? You only used the ice spirit.”

“Haha, women have many secrets, you know.”

Prea gave Leeha a stern look. Just as Chiyou didn’t tell Prea much, Prea also didn’t show everything to Chiyou.

“Is it possible to use the top-grade spirits in secret? Well, I’m not a Spirit Medium but I use spirits in the form of skills, so I don’t have a clue.”

Perhaps, that statement itself could be a lie. From the beginning, if he had launched an all-out attack with all the spirits alongside Chiyou, what would have happened?

“No, not to that extent… If all top-grade spirits had been summoned, we might have reached the ‘castle’ at that point.”

At that moment, there would have been another risk.

Perhaps she had already reached the castle? Was he being lured into that castle?

A trap of thoughts! Leeha bit his lip.

Being cautious is good. But caution shouldn’t make you lose too much.

“For now, you have to believe. There must be some covert way of using the spirits. And Prea didn’t summon all top-grade spirits. Why?”

Was it an expression of willingness to support him? It was probably not just that.

“Because dark spirits are that much desirable. He wouldn’t want to miss the opportunity right in front of him.”

He asked Prea for the location. Prea promptly summoned the top-grade earth spirit.

“Noeanen? Will you tell me the coordinates?”

The information was relatively easily obtained. With Blaugrunn also present, memorizing the coordinates was not difficult.

“Okay. If we go there and truly find a castle—”

“Then the dark spirit contract! It’s a promise, right?”

Prea’s eyes sparkled as she approached him, causing him to take a step back.


“Oh, well, there’s no promise yet! Let me gather people and go see it myself. I’ll check and get back to you.”

“Oh, but do we have to hurry?”

“Huh? Why?”

“Oh, you didn’t hear—Oh, I didn’t mention it, did I? Chiyou is gathering troops. They’ve already arrived.”

“What? Who, where?”

Prea casually revealed the astounding information.

While he was trying to weaken the forces of Shinobigumi and Yamato, an army was being assembled! Looking straight into his eyes, the white-eyed spiritualist cautiously mentioned the names of two individuals.

Just two people? They were both too well-known to him. Not only had he met both of them, but one had even cleared a quest with him.

“That doesn’t make sense.”

“Well, whether it makes sense or not, it seems like they’re on the move. Probably departing soon?”

Prea said as if talking about someone else’s story. But for Leeha, who was listening, the situation suddenly became urgent.

“Okay, got it. But is that information reliable?”

“If you’re curious, go check it out! Haha, they might not appear. And if they won’t release the dark spirits for contract, tell me about the reward you received for clearing the quest with Ha Leeha-ssi!”

– Ram Hwayeon-ssi, can you find someone for me right now?”

– What? Right now? You disappear and then suddenly want me to find someone?

– It’s urgent.

Ignoring the cute antics of the sprite performing in front of her, ran Hwayeon shot back at him with a whisper. As soon as his serious tone reached her ears, ran Hwayeon’s attitude changed instantly.

– Okay, who do you need me to find?

– One is Crowley. Remember that crazy alchemist? His whereabouts. The last place he was seen, etc.

– He’s nothing but bad memories. Got it, I’ll contact Jachung to look into it.


– And there’s one more.

Of the users called by Chiyou, one of them was the alchemist Crowley. A mad alchemist who made all kinds of potions!

After receiving a beating from Ram Hwajung and Kidd Combo, he had hidden away for a while. Where could he be and what could he be up to now?

“He may have created something new during that time. If he switches sides to Chiyou, it’ll be quite a nuisance. No, but maybe better than dealing with Chiyou!”

His voice was full of bitterness.

It should be safe to assume that the alchemist had indeed switched over to Chiyou’s side. Just believing that and acting on it wouldn’t cause any trouble.

However, the mention of another person by Prea had piqued Leeha’s interest, prompting Ram Hwayeon to search for the person.

“Why suddenly showing up here?”

Ram Hwayeon’s voice also dripped with uneasiness.

Whenever Leeha spoke up, ran Hwayeon knew very well that it wouldn’t lead to anything good.

Once more, Leeha glanced at Prea’s eyes. A different kind of poker face compared to dealing with Chiyou.

No, rather than a poker face, it felt more like seeing through a constantly smiling ‘mask’.

“Pyro.”

“What?”

“… Remember? During the expedition to the New Continent… the flame magician. A man who seemed to embody the word ‘hot-blooded hero.'”

Another member of the users called upon by Chiyou was none other than Pyro.

Leeha could easily visualize the composition of the users and the terrain that Chiyou aimed to conquer just by listening to the description.

On the frosted mountainside, with Prea protecting her abnormal status, Crowley’s ice-melting potions and Pyro’s fiery passion, they would melt all snow and ice as they advanced towards their goal.

※ ※ ※

“Just a little more! Can’t we get any closer?”

『It’s impossible to get any closer! That’s not just a simple barrier, it’s an offensive barrier mixed with Blizzard and barrier magic! Who would do such a thing-』 Whooosh! When the blizzard wind blew once again, Blaugrunn’s dragon form wavered. The gust was so strong that even those clinging to Blaugrunn’s scales with all their might were blown away, including Leeha.

“We might need to descend, Your Highness! It seems faster to walk on the ground!”

“But if we go that way, because of the abnormal status…”

After sending Prea away, Leeha immediately found a mountain with Blaugrunn. And that was to forcefully enter from the air faster than the way to attack it like Chiyou!

Could it be that they have already prepared for this? They surely are not ordinary monsters. It would be troublesome if someone inside the castle woke up. No, isn’t it already awake with this much power being used? Blaugrunn even furrowed its brow and began to descend.

“If we stay longer, the buffs you placed on me will be dispelled! I will descend now!”

“Got it! Slowly! Try to observe a bit more! Ahh!?”

Leeha barely dodged something coming towards him by ducking. Although he couldn’t see clearly, he could hear a sharp sound.

“There are sharp ice shards mixed in the blizzard! It’s not like ordinary hail or snowballs, so if we go down slowly, we might be in danger!”

“Damn, I got it! Let’s retreat as soon as possible!” *Nip!* Whoosh! Blaugrunn chose to retreat rather than descend. Sounds of *thud, thud* came from behind the dragon flying away. If it weren’t for a dragon capable of carrying Leeha on his back at this speed…

“I would have already been dead.”

After retreating for a while and no longer being attacked, Blaugrunn finally began to descend. It was a place slightly higher than the base of the mountain, where the eternal snow was not yet visible.

“Phew… I could have died. Forget about the castle—ah, Blaugrunn, did you see something like a castle?”

“Yes. I briefly saw it through the Blizzard clouds. It must be that.”

“I must be crazy.”

Leeha muttered as he shook his head. This place was in the eastern part of the New Continent. Without any specific maps, it was impossible to know the overall flow or ridgeline of the mountains. Not to mention, they couldn’t even pinpoint the location of the castle. In other words, they couldn’t even explore a climbing route that could be used from elsewhere.

“How… Then can we go this way?”

“If what the Spirit Sage Prea said is true, it will be quite difficult. Even I, as a Lightning spirit, find it comfortable to breathe here, but that doesn’t mean I have enough resistance against the Ice element.”

Blaugrunn, who had returned to human form, stated curtly.

“Alchemist and Pyro have already arrived. That was right before Prea left Chiyou’s side. Ready? If the Alchemist has the environment ready to make a potion, or if the potion has already been created… They will immediately move.”

When Chiyou’s team moves, confidential information will be relayed through Prea. In other words, if the worst comes to worst, Leeha would come alone using camouflage and set up an environment to snipe Chiyou in the snowfield.

But if that happens?

“It’s a matter of concern that there could be a spy. Whether it’s Prea, or anyone else, they won’t leak information to anyone.”

It can only be used at a crucial moment. Turning Prea completely around means when there is a chance to completely annihilate the Chiyou faction, Bluebeard, or monsters equivalent to Grievers. Only then.

“We need someone who can deal with ice.”

“We can’t call Prea… To deal with ice… Ice?”

Naturally, they couldn’t ask Prea for help either, as that would also reveal Prea as a spy.

“Huh?”

“Oh!”

In an instant, Leeha’s and Blaugrunn’s eyes, who were lost in thought, met. Both had expressions that they had thought of something. It wasn’t a difficult task to think about.

Ice? Who was the most excellent at that? Leeha and Blaugrunn shouted simultaneously. The conversation they had simultaneously intermingled.

“Ram Hwajung-”

“-T!”

“What? Who?”

Leeha and Blaugrunn’s eyes met quickly. It meant that their brains were quickly working.

“Ah, got it! Come to think of it, Blaugrunn mentioned that before, didn’t you? And we have that!”

“That’s right! And the human you’re talking about, Ha Leeha, is that person who was good at handling ice—”

“Ram Hwajung! That’s it!”

Ram Hwajung alone might not be enough. But what if they called all the ‘tools’ at their disposal as reinforcements? Ram Hwajung was not currently connected. Fortunately, ran Hwayeon was still wandering around the paleo area of the New Continent, so if they asked her, they could quickly summon Ram Hwajung.

(To be continued…)
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“Until Ram Hwajung connects, experience it firsthand with your body. If it’s mountain climbing, I’ve tried to make my body accustomed to it since my military days! Even though it’s my first time in a place like this, it must be similar to the Himalayas with snow falling, right?!”

With a resolved expression, Ha Leeha proceeded to climb the mountain with Blaugrunn, focusing on regulating his breathing.

“Let’s just experience what being in an abnormal status means and then head back.”

“Got it.”

With these words, Ha Leeha started climbing the mountain with Blaugrunn. About 50 minutes had passed before Ram Hwajung connected, and during that time, Ha Leeha had to come down the mountain with a shocked expression on his face.

“I-it was a crazy thing to do.”

“We need to find a way to defend against that cold air intake first. Cough!”

“Ugh! Blaugrunn, water!”

Cold air that could make dragons catch a cold. Realizing that it wasn’t naturally occurring, Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn headed towards the location where Ram Hwajung had connected.

“Ram Hwajung! And… Ram Hwayeon, what’s this?”

“Come.”

Ram Hwajung ran up to Ha Leeha with narrow steps and embraced him tightly, but the surroundings were so chaotic that he couldn’t even think it was fortunate that it wasn’t her usual ultra-strong tackle.

“We need a place to use as a headquarters, right? I set everything up here, including Castle Dale’s work, to handle everything here for the time being.”

Using the chain teleportation immediately at the point where the space was opened. In an area slightly away from the lava forest that had been the bonobo Paleos’ dwelling, a small village was under construction.

Ha Leeha could only look at the bewildered Paleos working there with a puzzled expression.

“Pygmy-nim…? Why are you working here? When did Harhei-nim and the gorillas come?”

“Where did you bring such a human female from? Even Koba-nim…”

“I can’t – I can’t take it anymore!”

“Wait! Stop making strange noises and go finish building the fences!”


“Okay.”

A project that involved the labor of the Mystical Creature Harhei, as well as the gorilla paleo? Even the eldest of the bonobo Paleos, Pygmy, followed Ram Hwayeon’s orders, shedding tears.

“I thought you were good at negotiations, but what’s all this about…? Moreover, the location is also quite strategic. The lava forest is quite close to the center of the new continent.”

The small village a bit to the west of there was not far from the Divine Staff either. If desired, it would be suitable for controlling creatures in all directions within the western part of the new continent from this location.

“Since we selected a place where users don’t frequent too much, in the end, there was no other option but a place like this. The risk is quite high, but still, since the bonobo Paleos and the Snake Paleos are nearby, we can flee there if necessary. bonobo Paleos are diurnal, and the snakes are nocturnal, so it’s good to take turns guarding.”

“Uh, I see.”

Even so, summoning the Gorilla Paleos, who were quite far away from here, to work.

“It means that he has a good understanding of the characteristics of the creatures and Paleos… Impressive.”

While watching Ram Hwayeon, Leeha couldn’t help but close his open mouth, feeling the strength as Ram Hwajung pinched his waist firmly.

“I also see it.”

Ram Hwajung was pinching Leeha’s waist with fern-like hands! Seeing her blunt expression, Leeha quickly brought up the main topic.

“Oh, right. I came here to ask a favor from Ram Hwajung.”

“Sure, I’ll do it.”

“Hwajung! You should still hear it, right?”

“Listen or not. It doesn’t matter. So, what do you want me to do?”

Even Ram Hwayeon had to shout at the way Ram Hwajung expressed her willingness to help Leeha, whether he could contribute or not.

In the meantime, Leeha used mana detection, scanned the surroundings, and talked to Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung about a new location.

Who is targeting that place, what is there, and why it needs to be occupied quickly. As the vivid descriptions of Blaughlun were added a few more times, ran Hwayeon’s expression began to change abruptly.

“… Something formidable will wake up there, just like Toon.”

“The probability is high. I don’t know why Bluebeard isn’t making a move directly.”


“That’s why they called Crowley and Pyro. Well, they may be good at strategy over there. Crowley may be, but Pyro has a habit of scouting ahead.”

Ram Hwayeon sighed in regret, “Oh, by the way, did you find out?”

“Yes, the last sighting on the Old Continent was 12 hours ago, and the current log-in status indicates they are on the New Continent. It was confirmed through someone Pyro befriended, so it should be accurate. By the way, where did you get this information?”

Leeha: White-eyed Spiritualist.

Ram Hwayeon: 10th place? Can we trust that?

Leeha: At least the current information seems true.

Ram Hwayeon didn’t ask for more details, just stared intently into Lee’s eyes as he spoke.

“Hwajung. It’s going to be very dangerous. If by any chance you die, it will be fatal for us too.”

Ram Hwajung’s power constitutes more than 80% of the force of the Hwahong Guild. Especially concerning the penalty of losing levels upon a Ranker’s death, ran Hwayeon was worried about it, but Ram Hwajung’s determination was firm.

“I’ll do it. Ice Mountain is not that scary. I have cold resistance+.”

“Shh, shh, enough!”

When Ram Hwajung tried to talk about herself, ran Hwayeon stopped her. After all, wasn’t it information about her own status that could be kept confidential?

In the Middle Earth where even mice should not hear the daytime conversation and birds the nighttime talk, Leeha, who understood this well, did not feel offended by Ram Hwayeon’s attitude. Instead, he was grateful.

“I don’t know how reassuring it will be, but I’m not asking for your help out of nowhere.”

“Huh? Then?”

Leeha smiled as he looked at Blaugrunn. As Blaugrunn gestured, something appeared in the air. The oval-shaped object shimmering in sky blue immediately caught the attention of Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung. Inside the translucent oval, rainbow-like lights flowed subtly.

“Is this… a gem?”

“No, I have one too.”

“Hwajung, you have one too?”

Ram Hwajung nodded and took out the same object from her bag.


“Of course… I thought you would naturally have one. It’s me who has one.”

“W-what is this?”

Ram Hwayeon asked Leeha, looking at the sky-blue gems held by Blaugrunn and Ram Hwajung. Leeha chuckled.

“It’s the frozen egg of an Ice Ostrich. The ones you’ll meet with this—oh, not people? Hmm… Well, since they might get surprised, could you ask them to appear in human form, Blaugrunn?”

“Understood.”

As Blaugrunn disappeared first through spatial teleportation, ran Hwayeon asked Leeha with wide eyes, “What’s this? Who are you meeting? Not human? Is it safe?”

“Hmm, I’ve only briefly met them once, but it should be safe.”

“What? Who is it?”

Leeha smiled mischievously. Who? There’s only one race worthy of benefiting from using the frozen egg of an Ice Ostrich.

“A Silver Dragon.”

One of the Metallic Dragon clan, a Silver Dragon who controls ice. With two frozen eggs of Ice Ostrich in hand, both Leeha and Ram Hwajung might achieve satisfactory results.

“H-have you met a dragon before, Ram Hwajung?”

“Yes. Several times.”

“Then, as you may already know, without touching on anything that might upset you, since our intimacy level is at 100%, I will tell you everything. So, if you could just stay by my side until-”

Blaugrunn was about to give some instructions to Ram Hwajung before he returned.

Though Ram Hwajung had encountered Dragons before, there weren’t many users who had reached such a familiar relationship as the one they had. The majority considered Dragons as a raid monster that needed to be hunted, and that was no different for Ram Hwajung. However, the degree of difference only set them apart from other users.

“Have you ever been frozen before?”

“-Just listen- Hm? You’ve been frozen?”

“During the Adult Dragon Raid. I didn’t like being frozen.”

Ram Hwajung replied nonchalantly, nodding slightly. To the listener, it felt like a cold breeze was passing through.

‘Not the most eloquent or skilled in conversation, but what can I say… I guess I have to trust Blaugrunn’s and my level of intimacy.’

As a close associate of Bahamut, surely there wouldn’t be any sudden trouble!

Moreover, Blaugrunn would establish a friendly atmosphere before calling them, so there shouldn’t be any real threat, at least according to Ha Leeha’s calculations.

“If anything happens to Hwajung… you’ll know, right?”

“Please worry about me a bit, too.”

Seeing Leeha’s expression, ran Hwayeon clenched her fist tightly, but Leeha could only force a dry smile.

With just a light joke, Hwayeon’s face gradually brightened. Leeha asking her to worry about him? That was a given for Hwayeon.

Shwaaaah-!

As Leeha chuckled at Hwayeon’s expression, Blaugrunn finally returned.

“Lord Arzenmacht has given permission. Shall we go?”

“Hwajung, are you ready?”

Ram Hwajung nodded. As Blaugrunn held their hands, haha suddenly remembered one question he had forgotten to ask.

“Oh! By the way, what about that Silver Dragon, arzenmacht-”

Shwaaaah…… |!

The three figures disappeared. Hwayeon momentarily showed a hint of unease, but that was all.

“I trust him.”

“What did you say, human female.”

“Eek! I told you to not to sneak on me, Pygmy!? Build the buildings quickly! And make sure the fence is sturdy!”

Flustered, ran Hwayeon looked away from the sudden close-up of the eldest bonobo paleo. Blaugrunn and Leeha arrived at the place of the Silver Dragon’s Lair after teleporting.

“This is an igloo?”

Leeha remarked.

“Yes”, Blaugrunn replied, “Arzenmacht likes this kind of place.”

From a human perspective, it was a massive ice structure that could be mistaken for a joint mining location.

In the midst of this ice structure, they were being watched by three individuals seated on a large ice table that could only be suitable for dragons or giants.

Leeha recognized him immediately. If Blaugrunn had become an Ancient-level being before his resurrection, he might have felt something similar.

Unlike when Blaugrunn boasted his turquoise-colored hair, arzenmacht’s hair flowed in a glossy silver, and his handsome face was captivating.

Leeha couldn’t recall ever meeting Arzenmacht in his human form.

“He must have only seen him in his dragon form. His rank seems ambiguous”, Leeha thought to himself.

Although he looked more mature than Blaugrunn from before, he appeared much younger compared to Baliphus. Arzenmacht jumped down from the table without taking his eyes off Leeha and his companions.

“I introduce you to the kin of the Lord, Ha Leeha and one of the most proficient human ice mages, Ram Hwajung.”

“Oh”, arzenmacht responded.

“I-I’ll go first. My name is Ha Leeha”, Leeha stuttered nervously.

While Leeha was composing himself, Ram Hwajung couldn’t help but gaze intently at Arzenmacht. Arzenmacht reciprocated the look.

Ignoring the greetings, introductions, and Blaugrunn, nyeomart continued to stare at Ram Hwajung.

Not one for formalities, Ram Hwajung tossed a whispered plea in Arzenmacht’s direction.

– “At least say hello! Even just a simple nod of acknowledgement! Please!”

Unfazed by such words, nyeomart, who previously had the expression as if to devour Ram Hwajung, suddenly spoke up.

“The temperature.”

“Absolute zero”, Ram Hwajung replied without any fluster.

“I-I’m sorry?”

Leeha tried to interject in his confusion, but Arzenmacht and Ram Hwajung were lost in admiration for each other, nodding in approval or muttering “Oh” in awe.

“The ice.”

“Ice Age”, Ram Hwajung responded casually with a slight nod, observing the Silver Dragon who reciprocated with a hum, hum. Seeing this, Leeha sadly retreated a step. (To be continued…)
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Leeha: Was this person – no, this individual the only one? Blaugrunn: There are others, but… Arzenmacht is the most curious one among the Silver clan. He would be the most suitable for trading the Ice Ostrich eggs with. Even now, despite having no familiarity whatsoever, he seems to fancy Ram Hwajung, the human.

Leeha: That? She’s what he fancies now? Blaugrunn: Yes. Can’t you tell from his expression? I saw Arzenmacht’s expression.

‘To capture.’

Are you saying he fancies an expression that seemed like ‘capture’?

‘What about when he sees someone he dislikes then?’

Dragon knew that each dragon clan and individual had different personalities, making it hard for Leeha to adapt to the rather expressionless face in front of him. Leeha remembered a quite cheerful silver-haired head that once showed interest in Jellypong, so his disappointment grew even more.

Crack!

In an instant, a massive ice spear manifested above Arzenmacht’s hand.

“Whoa!”

Leeha was startled and approached to protect Ram Hwajung, but Ram Hwajung was already surrounded by swirling blue orbs.

“W-wait, is Ram Hwajung-”

Crackle!

Leeha almost stumbled backward upon seeing an even larger ice spear materialize right before his eyes.

Barely managing to steady himself with the help of Jellypong and Blaugrunn, Leeha could finally discern what the two beings were up to. They were simply gazing at each other’s ice spears as if they were works of art.

The two magical creations disappeared simultaneously. Arzenmacht walked toward Ram Hwajung and held out his hand.

Without hesitation, Ram Hwajung took his hand. Contrary to the bewildered expression on Leeha’s face, Blaugrunn appeared to be enjoying himself as if he had witnessed a rare sight.

“Wow! Leeha-nim, do you see that?! That bone-chilling face! He acknowledged the human named Ram Hwajung! I never expected Arzenmacht to react like this. I didn’t anticipate this either.”

“… Wait, so, he is happy about this, right? It’s not the expression of seeing a foe of the clan, right?”

“… Well, that human named Ram Hwajung is the same way.”


“Hah, yeah. Nothing more to say.”

It was only natural that it looked like a handshake between mixed martial arts fighters engaged in a friendly battle. No more compliments or greetings were needed for the two beings who wielded ice. Once their skills were recognized and acknowledged by each other, everything thereafter proceeded swiftly. When an icy egg from Ram Hwajung’s bag and an icy egg looted by Leeha were revealed to Arzenmacht by Blaugrunn, that was the moment Leeha too could understand Blaugrunn’s words.

“Awesome.”

A dragon who let out such an exclamation as if he was about to crush the icy egg with his fist.

“So, he was indeed happy about that.”

He didn’t waste time or beat around the bush. Teleporting simultaneously with Leeha, Blaugrunn, and Ram Hwajung brought them to a place that Leeha suspected was Arzenmacht’s lair. Although it was a place with a ceiling and walls made of snow and ice, what was piled there was a mountain of items.

“Choose.”

Leeha understood his words as ‘Pick an item with a suitable value for a barter, think about it, and exchange it.’

Ram Hwajung was already rummaging through something, choosing.

“Ram Hwajung-ssi, do you remember what I said earlier? The place we need to go to in the future-”

“I remember everything you said, without exception.”

Ram Hwajung spoke without even looking back at Leeha.

Although it may have seemed dry on the surface, Leeha, who already knew Ram Hwajung’s habits, didn’t say much.

‘Pretending to be hugely embarrassed and occasionally saying such things well.’

Leeha rummaged through items, fanning his heated face. The reason why Ram Hwajung said such things without looking back at Leeha was obvious: because in that aspect, she had a similar personality to her older sister. They were the same in thinking that there was nothing more embarrassing than showing a blushing face to Leeha.

“Please help me find as well, Blaugrunn.”

“Of course. The priority would be cold resistance, right?”

“Yes, that’s the first thing to focus on.”

The statement that Blaugrunn, known to have a strong inquisitive nature even among Silver Dragons, was by no means an exaggeration.

“He said he wasn’t even at Ancient level yet. He must be at a stage right before going from Adult-class to Ancient level.”


What kinds and numbers of items were piled up in Leeha’s possession?

It seemed that the minimum amount was more than twice the treasures Blaugrunn, who had just entered the Adult-class in the past, had collected.

“No, it’s not just that…

‘Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh.’

It’s rare. Should I say it’s comparable to that place? It may not reach Bahamut’s level, but it was enough for Leeha.

『Coat crafted from Yeti’s fur by a hero tailor』

Effect: Cold resistance +25%, stamina +17

Description: A coat made from the warmest part of the fur of the famous Yeti known for its two tips. Crafted by Canada Goose, the first tailor to receive the title of “hero” and a giant hero tailor revered not only in Shazrashian but throughout the continent.

『Red top worn by the hero of the mountain bandits of Sesan Mountain』

Effect: Ice resistance +15%, stamina +16

Description: A top worn by Sherpa, the mountain bandit king who ruled the Sesan Mountain region in the northeastern part of Shazrashian. When more than ten times the number of knights were mobilized to barely subdue him, a miracle occurred as his blood-stained red top blazed brightly.

“The descriptions sound cool, but aren’t they essentially just a parka and red long johns? Surprisingly, there are no cold resistance items.”

Leeha, after searching for about an hour, pondered holding two items she found in front of Blaugrunn.

He flew in with a light sky-blue fur hat in his hand.

“This might be better than those.”

『Legendary fox fur cap』

Defense: 450

Effect: Cold resistance +40%, agility +15, stamina +8

Requirements: Agility 2,200 or higher, stamina 300 or higher

Description: It’s impossible to see the creature’s form in the wilderness. It was almost entirely coincidental that the appearance of a white fox was revealed.


If it weren’t for the breath of the red dragon that melted the perennial snow, finding a fox living solely by eating snow near the peak of the mountain would have been delayed for over a hundred years. Additional Effect: When 2 or more sets are equipped, additional cold resistance +10%

“Wow, legendary grade! Nice, nice. Indeed, it’s from Blaugrunn.”

Saying this, he ruffled Blaugrunn’s hair excitedly.

Seeming accustomed by now, Blaugrunn stood still even as his hair got messed up.

“Ah, is there a higher grade than this?”

“Don’t get greedy. I’ll still check, although even if there is, I’m not sure if Arzenmacht would approve.”

“Oh, I see. Still, please check once.”

After sending off Blaugrunn, he picked up another item he had found and compared a few.

“Hmm… This one looks good, and that one too. But since overlap of item usage isn’t allowed, ultimately, I have to swap and equip it with what I’m wearing currently.”

The hat he currently had equipped was a Heroic grade item – an item obtained from hunting the field boss of Harpies, which in terms of grade and options, a Legendary grade would obviously be much better. It even had a staggering 40% cold resistance, which was much needed.

“However, the value attached to my current hat seems to be more significant than adding all other options together!”

“The fact that it ignores the wind direction and speed for ranged projectiles… it might be useless for users who auto-attack due to their short range.”

“But for me, it’s akin to a blessing from God. Wearing a Legendary grade hat for cold resistance and then removing this one?”

He could imagine it. Though he could probably avoid status abnormalities with a fair chance, he wouldn’t be able to properly fire a single bullet throughout the entire climb up the mountain.

“It’s almost impossible to hit in that massive snowstorm… unless you use Arcane Bullet. It’s probably a challenge even for you who have always reproduced wonders.”

“As for the modest red undershirt… maybe that’s the way to go? At least in the current state, since the top and bottom don’t have any special functions, wearing that might be better than nothing.”

It was only natural to feel greedy. He knew very well that such situations were rare.

He looked at Ram Hwajung rummaging through items in the distance without a word to him as she began selecting items. Considering her relentless pursuit in the matter at hand, it was evident how obsessed and focused she could be when it came to the Middle Earth.

“At the same time, acknowledging that opportunities like this don’t come often even for Rankers like Ram Whajung. You have to be at your best, make the best choice. So isn’t it regrettable? Just picking red underwear?”

Leeha momentarily put down the items he was holding and rummaged through elsewhere. Among various potions, she found a small flask containing a white potion.

“There’s a white potion too?”

『Legendary White Reaper’s White Plague Potion』 Effect: When ingested, ice attribute resistance +80% Keeping the status effect 『White Plague』 Description: The White Reaper, who roamed the polar regions hunting legendary beasts, said, “Do not fear the winter. It’s impossible to endure the cold. Just be cold. With the potion I created, you can endure the cold a little better.”

It was a potion containing the secret of the White Reaper, known for creating the disease called White Plague and enduring the cold by taking it.

“Hunting legendary beasts…? White Plague…?”

Leeha shuddered as she read the dreadful words written in the item’s description box.

“Moreover, it’s different. Usually, potions just need to be swallowed. But this one needs to be ingested?”

If ingested, does it mean it can be used permanently when taken out? What if it’s swallowed?

“Do I have to be afflicted with White Plague for a lifetime? No, what in the world is White Plague?”

Leeha tried explaining the item to Blaugrunn, but even the dragon just shook his head.

“I’ve never heard of it. I know the Black Plague, but White Plague?”

“Well, do you know about the White Reaper, the human who killed 542 people in 100 days?”

“An invincible person in snowy areas? I had a brief interest in it before because it was considered an achievement, but that’s all.”

“Killing 542 people in a hundred days? Wow…”

Leeha’s eyes widened. If even a vile act is considered an achievement, how remarkable must it be. Receiving a disease she created and gaining resistance to ice in return. In the Middle Earth, this result was entirely possible. The game was designed for the opposite to fulfill their desired strength. In other words, white Plague as a status ailment bestowed such a terrifying effect as an 80% resistance to the ice attribute, indicating how formidable it was.

“It’s not just a cold resistance status but an 80% resistance to the entire ice attribute. It’s an incredible effect. Compared to the fire attribute resistance, it’s even surpassing Fire Flower.”

Even the rare Fire Flower conceded to the Fire Element King’s resistance of 50% to the entire fire attribute. Yet, a mere human-made potion provided an 80% resistance to the entire ice attribute!

“Of course, it’s not permanent. Only while it’s ingested… But it’s almost a scam-like item, that’s for sure.”

If he had been able to test it at least once or knew the true nature of White Plague, he would not have hesitated. However, with testing being impossible and even dragons being unaware of what White Plague was, it was only natural that his hand didn’t easily reach out for it. (To be continued.)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 727

				
Arcane Sniper 727

“Mmhh… ” Blaugrunn and Leeha exactly knew what was the item sought after at this rare opportunity.

However, time did not wait for anyone.

Considerable time had already passed. It meant that there was enough room for activity on the other side.

Prea: Chiyou, Crowley, Pyro, me, and a total of six Yamato members are going to depart. The determination to finish the expedition this time is remarkable.

News reached Leeha’s ears that Chiyou and his team had left for the snowy mountain.

“Damn it, already? Can you stall for some time?”

“Is it okay to do that? If I blurt out something irrelevant here– Ah, okay. Then I won’t say anything.”

Leeha quickly recalled Prea’s habit of speaking without reading the room and promptly stopped her. Given her tendency to speak without regard for the atmosphere, the likelihood of making a verbal slip was high, which would only heighten Chiyou’s vigilance unnecessarily.

“It will take about 2 hours to reach the snowy mountain. It’s fortunate that Crowley’s pace is slow.”

“2 hours……. Understood. Please accompany Chiyou completely to that place.”

“Oh my, of course.”

Of course? Even then, Leeha couldn’t completely erase his doubts about Prea.

“If this is a trap. But if it’s true?”

Since the possibility couldn’t be ruled out, Leeha had no choice but to believe her words. After all, everything would be settled at the snowy mountain.

“Ram Hwajung! Make the decision within 10 minutes; we need to depart right away.”

“Yes, oppa.”

Ram Hwajung, too, hadn’t deciphered the riddle of the items until a certain point.

Seeing her seriously contemplating between the two items, Leeha quickly opened the character window.

Name: Leeha / Race: Human / Class: Musketeer / Level: 250 (19) Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 147 HP: 8,220 (5,754) MP: 2770 Stats: Strength 675 (+590) Agility 4000 (+1,382) Intelligence 528 (+334) Stamina 291 (+198) Mind 165 (+150) Remaining Stat Points: 75


Having obtained the stat points from killing the Wood Elf rankers and reaching level 250, and five bonus points. Additionally, thanks to the achievement ‘One who values archaeology’ received in the Dark Elf village, intelligence and willpower had increased by 8 each.

Leeha once again looked at the item from before.

It was neither an offensive weapon nor armor. It is a kind of supplementary item, so even though it is of legendary level, there are no specific requirements.

“When you increase my mind by 35, it becomes 200. Intelligence is already over 500, but it is related to 140 recovery, so invest 22 in intelligence, and 14 in stamina… Leave the remaining 4 for now. This way, the minimum requirements will be met.”

With mind at 200, intelligence at 550, and stamina at 305, in that case, the subsequent 80 would be 8,500 / &402 would be 3,200. It was an investment to endure a debuff called ‘White Plague’ that eats up 40 points, even a little more.

“Hey, what are you thinking about? Obviously, you only have this hat!”

“Wait a moment. I still have 5 minutes left, so give me a little more time.”

“I know you want to get stronger, but if you make a wrong choice like before… as soon as you climb the snowy mountain, your feet will be bound. If Bluebeard’s pawns succeed in awakening something in that castle-”

“I know, I know.”

While suppressing his breathing, who was urging him non-stop, he tried to calm himself.

“So I’m trying to make a careful choice. To stop them right away.”

With 3,200, he could use the curve shot three times. But will he only use the curve shot? Didn’t he need other skills? He simulated the battle on the snowy mountain. If that’s the case, what results could he achieve? What was the best choice considering all situations? At that moment, something popped up in his mind. White Reaper.

“Now we must depart, Ha Leeha.”

“Phew… So it’s the White Reaper. By the way, are you talking about that? They say, Key, midliths are a bit quirky sometimes.”

Despite Blaugrunn’s urging, he could smile and mutter to himself.

Wasn’t it something he must not forget that word? If ‘that’ was inspired by ‘that person’, he no longer had any fear.

“I will choose this.”

Reaching for the white potion, he handed it to Arzenmacht.

“Valid.”

Arzenmacht nodded his head. Leeha who was observing that gesture couldn’t help but finally utter a word.


“Arzenmacht, are you perhaps interested in touring the Eternal Snow Mountain Range of the New Continent?”

Desperate times call for desperate measures. The Silver Dragon, arzenmacht, silently looked at the person before him.

When unable to decipher the change in expression on Arzenmacht’s face and feeling awkward, Ram Hwajung approached and tugged at the edge of Arzenmacht’s robe.

“Let’s go together.”

Leeha, observing a much more sinister expression on the Silver Dragon’s face than when they had asked, hastily tried to stop Ram Hwajung. However, arzenmacht simply nodded quietly.

“Then, let’s go.”

“Huh, what? You’re going?”

“Any issues?”

“Uh… No. If there is an issue-”

Perhaps the issue is not being able to control one’s expression due to being too happy.

Leeha quietly whispered to Ram Hwajung.

Leeha: Ram Hwajung, nice.

Ram Hwajung: What are you talking about, oppa?

They hadn’t inquired while being mindful themselves. Leeha still thought they didn’t understand anything about Ram Hwajung.

“Blaugrunn, head to the nearest coordinates! Let’s transform into dragon form and fly as soon as we get there.”

“Got it.”

After the group departed, roughly 15 minutes later, Leeha, Ram Hwajung, and two dragons headed towards the snowy mountains.

If there was a silver lining in misfortune, it was that Chiyou’s pace was slightly slower than Leeha, grateful(?) for Alchemist Crowley’s slow movements, the group stood at the midpoint of the mountains where the Eternal Snow was visible.

‘The ice here seems abnormally formed.”

“Yeah, it’s quite unusual.”


Upon their arrival, Silver Dragon and Ram Hwajung engaged in a conversation akin to seasoned geologists.

Although previously anxious about whether Ram Hwajung might inadvertently provoke the dragon during their conversations, such concerns no longer bothered him now.

“Leeha, mana has been detected. It’s about 1km away in front!”

“Alright, then let’s… prepare! Don’t go up first! To prevent Chiyou from sensing our presence! We must wait slightly apart from the path and catch up with them as soon as Chiyou begin their ascent! As if we were here for the first time! As if we coincidentally stumbled upon them!”

Shouting towards Ram Hwajung, Leeha signaled to Arzenmacht. Despite receiving no response to his spirited words, Leeha did not falter.

“I will definitely stop them, Chiyou. Whatever is in that castle… today will be your doomsday.”

Arriving first near the peak of the Bramsilvania Castle in the Eternal Snow Mountain, the party was determined to achieve their goal.

※ ※

“Going from the Silver Dragon Arzenmacht’s lair to the central region of the New Continent and now to the Eternal Snow Mountain in the northeast? Highness, where are we headed to?”

Observing this movement, there were only two people in Middle Earth who could discern more detailed movements than just simple acquaintances.

Among them, Kidd watched as Leeha’s movement and chuckled.

“Was expecting to find the trace of Kaztor, but going from Silver Dragon Lair to the Eternal Snow Mountain…?”

Not long ago, Kidd had also been observing Luger’s movements.

Moving from the central to the eastern region of the New Continent, near the Dark Forest, Luger’s sudden logout a few days ago…

“Luger, this is different from your usual patterns. If you encountered something, it must have been somewhere nearby.”

Kidd was also aware that Elizabeth and Brown were in the eastern region of the New Continent.

1. Kaztor must have crossed over to the New Continent at some point.

2-1. He must have headed to the eastern region of the New Continent to pursue Elizabeth and Brown.

2-2. Or he could be using Vitality Jar to recover his body.

3. Luger, detecting his whereabouts, hurried to chase after him, but could he have unexpectedly encountered Kaztor on his way and been attacked?

This was the most logical speculation explaining Luger’s abnormal patterns.

“Rotzak, Leeha, I don’t know what tactics you’re using, but selecting the eastern region was probably the right choice for you. However, heading northeast from there is a different choice from mine… I will continue tracing Luger’s trail.”

And Kidd believed that Leeha was also making the same judgment.

Kidd’s current location was the central region of the New Continent, at the Corrupted World Tree Forest. Essentially the last place where spatial movement was possible, he was now walking towards the east. And he picked up his pace.

If only he didn’t see the chaos in sight.

“Oh no! R-run! There’s something- something strange approaching!”

“As far as that forest of the world tree, once you reach there, spatial teleportation will be possible! Everyone, run, don’t slow down the pace!”

“Damn it, how can I not slow down, from behind—G-g-guys!”

Suddenly, among the group of people running, an explosion occurred.

“Huh? What’s happening?”

“What, what is it, I thought it was a friend! Quickly run away! Hurry! Something enormous is behind us, maybe some kind of chimera!”

“A chimera?”

“It’s not just the chimera that’s the problem. It’s not only the sheer number of chimeras but there is something floating in the air causing strange bombings!”

“Bombings?”

As Kidd who had never faced Ghibrid before, it was a situation he couldn’t quite understand.

‘You do know that the Grievers have awakened. But has he already regained enough power to create chimeras?’

But it wasn’t necessary to understand every detail of the situation. How many monsters are approaching in the distance, raising dust clouds? Leading them, monsters with wings dotted the sky. What were they?

“It’s a Manticore! I’ve seen that before, it’s the Manticore that appeared near the Divine Staff in the past! But, the one in front doesn’t look like a Manticore!”

“When you reach the teleportation point, quickly go to Ezwen! We need to call the Holy Knight and Paladins!”

Still, moving backwards through the tumultuous users, Kidd used a skill. Though not as powerful as the Eagle’s Eye, it was a skill that significantly enhanced his vision.

“The distance is approximately 1.7 meters. I didn’t enter the attack range of the Manticore—uh, huh?”

As Kidd scrutinized the size and characteristics of the Manticores, his eyes widened.

“This can’t be! That, that is!”

At the forefront of the Manticore group, there was a monster with a peculiar appearance.

Its form resembled a centaur, with the upper body of a human and the lower body of a lion, adorned with bat-like wings as the Manticore. The only difference being the hooves instead of paws!

If the upper body resembled a human, Kidd could understand why the users were fleeing in confusion. If that was what he thought it was, if it indeed possessed such power, ordinary users wouldn’t stand a chance. It didn’t take long for this to be proven. Kidd saw ‘it’ floating in the sky lifting something. A distance of 1.76 meters? That is nothing. Whaaat—!

When the Manticore and the Composite Chimera fused together, ‘it’ had taken away their characteristics, becoming the ‘Monster Luger.’

(To be continued…)
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“Wow-! Here comes the bombardment again! Run for your lives!”

As the storm of explosion swept over, players wrapped their heads and scrambled in confusion to escape. A moment later, amidst the roar of the storm, the voices of several people grew louder.

“Hey, where did that person who was just here go? Kidd, right? It was Kidd! Where did that person go?”

“What? That person is Kidd? Sleeping – no, 『Rapidfire』 Kidd? The one that the Wood Elves were sharpening their knives for?”

Meanwhile, there were those who recognized Kidd. However, where Kidd had been standing, there was nothing but an empty space on the ground.

“Oh my god! Kidd is dead!”

“What? Kidd is dead? That Kidd!”

“Whoa! Kidd must have been facing a monster strong enough to kill him!”

“Run like your life depends on it! The World Tree Forest is right ahead!”

Then a voice cut through the chaos.

“It’s noisy. Who said someone died?”

* – Aggrieved”

As the fleeing players suddenly collided with a shadow appearing in front of them, they stumbled on the ground. When they got back up, they could clearly see the player who had blocked their path.

Kidd frowned, pressing down on his hat.

“Kidd! You’re not dead-”

“I said it’s noisy. Quickly tell me what you know. Where did you find that, and what is it.”

With movements much faster than a well-ranked, he could evade the monster’s shelling, but even then, it was not a complete escape. Burn marks were clearly visible on the coat’s hem. There was no time to relax.

“I-I don’t know! Towards the eastern part of the New Continent.

I received a quest to find the Forgotten Tribe and was on my way! Suddenly, those monsters sprang out of nowhere-”


“We were planning to hunt down a few Manticores! Our hunting team is quite efficient in the western part of the New Continent, you know? But as soon as those monsters jumped out from the other Manticore herd, the situation suddenly changed! That strange Manticore-”

“Have you seen the Gryphons?”

“Gryphons?”

“Amidst the chimeras approaching intently from the mainland, did you not see any other monsters?”

“Damn it! How could I have noticed that! Dealing with the one in the air right now-”

“Oh no! Please dodge!”

Kidd gathered all his strength in his calves and leaped backward. What was seen from afar had once again come into view, moving!

“Gahhhhhhhhh!”

Thud.

“Crap!”

Kidd covered his face to block the heat pouring out along with the aftermath. But before covering his face, he could see, as if frozen in jet light, the figures of users turning into smithereens unable to escape the explosion radius.

‘The attack power is equal to or greater than usual Luger… If Ghibrid is a Demon King’s Fragment creating Chimeras, then Luger probably is…’

There were no more users to provide information. However, with just fragments of information about Luger’s whereabouts and the fragmented mentions made by the users, Kidd could infer the situation.

“I haven’a heard any stories about Ghibrid flying. Then even with Ghibrid present, it is assumed that they would be at least 2.56 meters away from the center of the Chimeras herd. Judging by the speed, it will take a considerable amount of time to reach here. Above all, there is hope.”

Blinking, Kidd ran away, passing by three users, without turning back. Out of 25 members of an attack unit, only three people survived. Kidd thought of it as unlucky luck. One of the three must surely go to Juma and report what happened, then the likelihood of reinforcements arriving was high.

“Then I only have one thing to do.”

Drenching his burnt coat, Kidd swiftly drew out the “Crimson Geckos”. Not only the Manticores combined with Luger but also the regular Manticores were flying towards Kidd.

Just the number of regular Manticores exceeded twenty. From Kidd’s point of view, who had never battled with a Manticore before, that alone was burdensome enough.

Not to mention, including Manticore-Luger altogether? It would be incomparable to the total combat power of twenty Manticores.

However, Kidd did not retreat. Under the firmly pressed fedora, Kidd’s grin was, in fact, rising.


“No, perhaps this is what I wished for. Luger, you have already logged out, I presume…”

Luger was aggressive. Moreover, he had the skills to back up that aggression. Furthermore, despite seeming somewhat flaky, the person charging at the opponent more shrewdly than the opponent is none other than Luger.

But what about only Luger?

Kidd knew better than anyone the power of 『Pierce』 and how difficult it is to deal with it. In some ways, it is not an exaggeration to say that Kidd understood the 『Pierce』 power more shrewdly than Luger. The reason he has been stepping back until now is that he did not pay much attention to proving his strength through fighting.

His nickname up to now has been ‘Sleeping’, after all. When did he start to change like that?

“However, you’re not my rival, Luger.”

Despite his sly face and childish attitude, he exuded charisma that gripped those around him or played Middle Earth in unconventional ways that others hadn’t considered. Kidd knew himself. Something had changed within him since he recognized his rapid growth and acknowledged Luger as a rival.

At some point, Kidd started to genuinely want to compete against Luger. Of course, in Middle Earth, it was almost impossible to do so. Even for the consistency of future quests, Kidd decided that it was better not to attack each other sincerely, even if they growled at each other.

But what about now?

One of the Three Musketeers transformen into a monster?

Kidd raised his hand, fiddling with the brim of his hat. His eyes sparkled beneath the hat. In an instant, the barrel of Luger’s rifle gleamed.

“I too have been waiting for the day to cross swords with you!”

Grrrrr—

As the thunderous boom and dust started to scatter, Kidd’s figure was no longer visible.

The battle of the Three Musketeers, ready to kill each other with all their might, had just begun.

“Is that really true?”

“Y-yes! If we don’t dispatch the paladins quickly – no, Kidd must have already died!”

It was natural for chaos to erupt within the Papacy.

The three surviving users protected by Kidd teleported to the Papacy of Ezwen together. Armed with the urgent information of Manticores and Chimeras appearing, they had already entered the Pope’s inner sanctum.

Phew…


“Do not wait for my command. Has the current location of 『Exorcism Cardinal』 been identified?”

“W-We are currently locating it. It is presumed to be on the New Continent…”

The formerly known as Romero, the present Pope Urban II, nodded as he listened to the report from the accompanying Exorcism Cardinal.

“Immediately dispatch troops, including paladins, to assist the Exorcism Cardinal. If necessary, mobilize all the forces, including the Pope’s guards.”

“T-That cannot be done! At this moment, shortly after the conclusion of the Conclave, the Pope’s safety is above all else-”

“Cardinal Giovanni.”

“Y-Yes, Your Holiness.”

“I trust you know what is important. There are no enemies within the Papacy anymore. Isn’t it the Exorcism Cardinal who has also kept me safe?”

The Pope smiled. Who was the threat to the Pope’s safety within the Papacy, and what has happened now?

Urban II vividly remembered the incident where he had discovered Tuscullani’s electoral fraud and effectively buried him socially. Naturally, bishop Giovanni, assisting the Pope, was also present in the room.”

Understood. I will immediately dispatch three hundred Paladins, including the Papal Guard, to the Excorcism Cardinal.”

“Excellent. And please do not forget the resting place for the esteemed guests who brought important news.”

“Yes, Your Holiness.”

Being appointed as the Pope did not change 80’s personality.

The three users listening to the conversation between the Pope and Cardinal couldn’a help but show a touched expression.

Meanwhile, Kijung was clearing out monsters near the village that Ram Hwayeon was newly constructing.

It was part of the 『Balchisan 885198ㅁ Project』 for Mwabielle, involving a collaboration with Hwahong, but the situation completely changed due to the urgent summons from the Vatican.

“A Manticore and a Chimera!?”

“Kijung, you need to go now!”

Bobae strongly insisted, “Even though it’s Demon King’s Fragment, just looking at Kijung now, he can’a do anything.”

The sentiments of the other team members were not much different.

When a Manticore and a Chimera appear, it means Ghibrid has appeared. Despite this, they, including Hyein, Tale, Biyemi, showed no particular signs of worry.

They remembered that Kijung had defeated Ghibrid twice before.

‘Oh no, this is bad. Is it going to happen again this time?’

However, Kijung, the main character, had to quickly send a message without showing his panic.

Kijung: Hey, are you fooling around with Ghibrid again?

Leeha: What? What are you talking about?

Kijung: Ah, nevermind. Manticore and Chimeras appeared near the Corrupted World Tree Forest, thought you might be Ghibrid. If you can help–Wait, no, you are really busy and doing something important right now! Don’t bother coming out and take care of your own body! I’ll guard 『Divine Staff』 well!”

‘If he could help, would I have to ask my hyung for it…?’

Kijung had to swallow his bitter words while listening to the response. It was disappointing that his hyung gave such a cruel answer. Of course, it was because Kijung had no idea about his hyung’s current situation.

“Kijung, are you not going?”

“I-I have to go. I have to…go.”

Kijung swallowed hard. In a way, this encounter with Ghibrid could be considered Kijung’s “true first battle.”

“The first was Leeha’s dragon. And the second… even now, it sends shivers down my spine to think about it. We fought playfully like that.”

Kijung vividly remembered the battle that day when he joked around with Leeha, laughing while chatting.

Ghibrid’s attacks were definitely more ferocious than the first. In reality, there was a significant decrease in damage too. But wasn’a his heart as cold as ice?

“If on that day… you hadn’t suddenly retreated to a higher position, I would have died.”

Turning away from Kijung, Ghibrid spoke after syncing his movements with Kijung. There was no allied forces, no unusual circumstances at that moment. Thanks to that action, Kijung could have even stronger faith in Blaugrunn.

“That day was all just my misunderstanding. This is real now. Fighting the real Ghibrid.”

“Shwaaaa…!”

At that moment, a holy amber light flickered before Kijung’s eyes.

“What’s this?”

“It’s a message from His Holiness the Pope.”

Ezwen, who had located Kijung, sent the message from the Vatican. The moment he placed his hand on that light, he would be transported to the location designated by the Pope.

“Phew… please focus on clearing out the monsters around this area.”

“Haha, you don’t need our power to deal with Ghibrid, do you?”

“It’s not that-”

“Biyemi, isn’t Kay in trouble? Haha. Alright, have a safe trip, Kay. Don’t forget to record.”

Listening to Biyemi’s words, Kijung, who had planned not to say a word, had to shut his mouth due to Hyein’s natural flow of the conversation. He wanted to ask for help. However, since it was hard to predict how bad the situation would be if they were to face the real Ghibrid and a pack of Chimeras, Kijung decided to firm up his heart for now.

“First, let’s assess the situation.”

Kijung adjusted his expression. With a smile that could fully demonstrate the Guild Master’s trust, he placed his hand on the light.

“Well then, I’ll be off!”

Poof!

Kijung was immediately teleported near the Corrupted World Tree Forest. There, the Paladins and Papal Guards who had been dispatched were already waiting for him.

“Total of 555 members, in accordance with His Holiness’s will, I am once again appointed as the Holy Knight’s aide! Towards the Exorcist Adjunct… salute!”

“Did even the Papal Guard come? Ah, no need to be so formal right now.”

(To be continued…)
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At that moment, a distant explosion jolted Kijung’s mind back to reality. Who would he hold accountable for the dispatch now?

Grateful for the Pope’s kindness in even dispatching his personal guards, Kijung immediately began inspecting the troops.

“In times of urgency, we must be prepared to mobilize all defense forces near the 『Divine Staff』! However, I am a Holy Knight who received ‘punishment’ directly from His Holiness! True to the name of an Exorcist Grandmaster, I will confront a Demon King’s Fragment. The will of the Lord values life! Do not take your lives lightly! Everyone, prepare for battle!”

Clang, clank, clink~!

The Paladins and guards did not shout battle cries, yet the overflowing morale could be felt through Kijung’s skin.

Drawing his sword and raising his shield, Kijung thought, ‘I should use the Dinosaur Transformation skill when facing the enemy. It doesn’t last very long, and if Ghibrid doesn’t retreat, there’s no point in needlessly provoking with the transformation. Let’s first engage bare-handed, then assess the situation and use the Dinosaur Transformation. Guiding his retreat again is the best option.’

With a yell, he swung his sword down fiercely.

“Raaawwrr!”

Aaahh–!

Including Kijung, the Paladins, and guards, a total of 556 troops rushed towards the east in the contaminated Forest of the World Tree. They ran for about 15 minutes.

Kijung had to witness a bizarre sight. Not just him, but the Paladins and guards following behind were equally astonished.

“What, what is this? Ahh!”

As a tremendous heat surged with the explosion, Kijung reflexively raised his shield. He vaguely knew that Ghibrid wasteland was close by.

But what was fueling the flames burning everywhere?

Dragon’s Breath? No, it wasn’t magic. Rather, the terrain seems completely devastated. Why were there scattered dig sites across the area as if hit by meteorites?

“Exorcist Grandmaster! Someone is over there!”

“W-Who, who is that?”

Pointing frantically, one of the Paladins NPC called out to Kijung. With eyes sharpened, Kijung looked at the indicated spot. Despite the considerable distance, something was clearly moving. It moved too swiftly, making it difficult to even track with the eyes.

What appeared as a black dot to Kijung momentarily halted before moving again. At that moment, a voice resounded in Kijung’s ears amidst the frenzy.


“Did you think you could catch me with something like Soyutanda, the wings I’ve already shown you?”

“Squeeeal——!”

A dozen Manticores, bouncing like black dots, rushed towards the person, but the person slipped away without being caught.

“Your breath stinks, manticores!” – In an instant, the person twisted his body and spewed fire into the air. The Manticores instinctively folded their wings to block his bullets.

The strength of the wings, resembling bat membranes, and the sound of hitting metal plates reverberated in all directions.

“… Ah! Oww!? That, that person!”

Finally, Kijung could grasp the true identity of the black-dot figure.

A user fighting over twenty Manticores and unidentifiable monsters in a desolate wasteland, turning nearly 600 meters of terrain into rubble and setting the unburnable areas ablaze, where even the slightest chance of fire was impossible.

“Kidd-!”

Kijung called out his name at the top of his lungs.

※ ※ Kidd showed no response towards Kijung. However, Kijung was convinced that Kidd heard his voice.

“Isn’t he easy to get along with? Is the situation that urgent?”

Only a few seconds had passed, but the situation was changing drastically. The Manticores charged at Kidd, who swiftly dodged and shot his revolver at them, despite the considerable distance from Kijung to witness the scene.

The gunfire echoed, followed by a crushing sound akin to hitting a drum. Though occasional screams of the Manticores could be heard, there were no bodies turning to ashes. Kijung was chilled to the bone watching Kidd’s movements.

“Even at this distance, it’s hard to keep up with him visually? Hah, it reminds me of Bluebeard incident. No, slightly slower than that, perhaps?”

Admiration and analysis occurred simultaneously. While the Manticores possessed exceptional defense, it was clear that Kidd’s movements overwhelmingly surpassed it.

That meant there was no need to rush to such an extent. So why was the situation so tense?

“There!”

A creature somewhat separated from Kidd and the pack of Manticores, observing everything with a contemplative expression.

Kijung quickly counted the Manticores engaged with Kidd while keeping an eye on this new presence.


“Because of that one there. It’s because of that monster that resembles a Manticore but seems different, making it impossible for Kidd to see this side! That monster might be- huh?”

Kijung observed the monster in the air wriggling about, but he couldn’t discern its significance. However, one thing stood out – the tiny bug that had been plainly visible near Kidd had vanished.

Why had the bug disappeared?

“Oh, damn it! Everyone retreat!”

His body moved first.

Kijung lifting his shield and the sudden flash of light from the airborne entity happened almost simultaneously. With an ear-splitting reverberating sound, an explosion occurred where Kijung had been standing.

“Wow!”

“Ahh!”

The Paladins and Royal Guards standing close to Kijung could not even hold their stances and were tossed in all directions. A storm that left fingers severed and thigh bones visible, causing severe wounds!

Then what about the spot where the explosion originally occurred?

“Ho, Holy Knight!”

“Exorcism Cardinal!”

Despite the worried voices and desperate expressions for Kijung, before the smoke cleared, a shout erupted from the same spot. 『Don’t panic! Focus on your surroundings, confirm any injuries to our allies, move the lightly wounded to the back, and the seriously wounded to the medical station!』

Baaaang!

As the explosive smoke dissipated with the Paladin’s resolute response, there stood a Holy Knight enveloped in white bones, his eyes shining. 『I will deal with the Manticore and the unidentified monster over there! Please prepare fire and attribute magic attacks! The Chimeras coming now are weak against fire. Even if Ghibrid are a hassle, let’s focus on reducing the Chimera population!』

Without even listening to the Paladins’ reply, Kijung dashed out.

When casting 『Dinosaur Transformation』, every second counted.

With his overwhelming increase in speed, it didn’t take long for Kijung to reach Kidd and the group of Manticores.

“Kidd!”

Kakakak, Kakakang, Kakakang-!


Even amidst this, Kidd’s guns didn’t rest a moment. He fired nine shots in mid-air, three more as he descended, and replaced the chamber in his right-handed revolver with six more rounds.

When both his feet touched the ground again, both of his Justice Guns were fully loaded with ammunition.

“That voice… it’s Master Kay. But his appearance!?”

“If we’re talking about appearances, Kidd, you’re not having it easy either, right? No time to chat about looks! What I want to ask is, once we finish off these guys, can we get some answers?”

Observing Kidd’s determined gaze, Kijung could imagine how fierce the battle must have been. His body was covered in ash, his once neat and chic appearance destroyed. Some parts of his hat’s brim were burnt or crumpled by the fire.

Since Kidd was in such a state, his smile seemed even more radiant to Kijung.

“Alright! I’ll take care of the Manticores. Just leave Luger to me.”

With that said, Kidd’s joyful expression shone even brighter, “Okay! I’ll take care of the Mantic- Huh? Luger?”

“Eek!”

『Over there! 『Holy End』!』

Kijung, who was about to ask what ‘Luger’ meant, had to urgently raise his sword. Opening his mouth wide, he completely tore apart the lower jaw of the Manticore approaching, and then stabbed it!

“Chirp~.”

With a lightning-fast swordplay, he grazed the Manticore’s forehead and then kicked away its body.

Meanwhile, the scorpion’s tail aimed at Kijung and shot towards him, but that was it. Tearrr-!

The full-body armor wrapped in Thone’s bones was not something an ordinary Manticore’s tail could penetrate.

“Not ticklish, huh?”

Swiftly, Kijung cut off the tail tip that got stuck to his sword.

In addition to being 『Dinosaurized』, Kijung, now able to wield the ‘Nameless Paladin’s Sword’ with both hands, had all his combat abilities heightened!

Was it because they had been facing evasion-focused Kidd for a long time?

The Manticore’s, like pigs, rushed towards him, unable to easily adapt to Kijung’s attacking pattern of sacrificing his flesh and taking their bones.

While Kidd entrusted the Manticore’s entirely to Kijung, he dashed towards him after breaking through the wall of fire formed by Luger’s soybeans.

“I didn’t intend to tell Leeha about it, but eventually Leeha’s younger hyung came… Isn’t that amusing, Luger?”

How long had it been since such laughter rang out?

Despite knowing that the Luger in front of him was not the ‘user’ Luger, Kidd couldn’t figure out how to express this desire to converse with him. He concentrated his mind on dodging the Manticore’s attacks and, in between, worked on avoiding all types of projectiles fired by Luger.

Combat where his life was at stake, like acrobatics, was not Kidd’s preference. Assessing the enemy’s skills and completely suppressing them with speed was actually Kidd’s style. Kidd readily admitted that.

Transformed into a monster, Luger, who had become a chimera, was by no means an easy opponent.

In reality, if they missed replicating the skills and projectiles possessed by the ‘user’ Luger, the damage to the next users would be much greater.

“It was actually fortunate that the Manticore’s targeted me. Thanks to that, the accuracy of the shelling was significantly reduced. If the numbers on this side were more and the Manticore’s attacks were dispersed, the shelling would have been far more precise and would have been aimed at me at shorter intervals.

Constantly being bombarded with projectiles such as soybeans and timed bullets, grenades and armor-piercing shells, and all kinds of penetrating-explosive projectiles?

In such a hair-raising scenario, how many times did he think he barely escaped alive?The Manticore, had it not served as a shield, Kidd might have died. Therefore, Kidd was satisfied with his battered appearance.

“Nevertheless, I didn’t die.”

Kidd holstered all four Crimson Geckos. Retrieving weapons during battle was somewhat unconventional, but…

“If I were alone, it would have been truly impossible… But… Luger, you were not alone either, so I won’t make excuses. 『Cold Anger』.”

Kidd accelerated even further. Hyo-oh euee. The light orbs gathered at Kidd’s waist. Skills requiring casting time near instant skills were extremely rare.

“And with this, it’s a draw.”

Haaaah…. Kidd took a deep breath. The Manticore-Luger in the air still faced the Paladin and the Pope’s guards. Kidd and his target were very close. Running like that, in the final moment, Kidd sped up once more. Boom! From 300 meters to 250, 200, and down to 150!

“What?!”

As the Manticore-Luger in the air noticed Kidd approaching, it immediately turned its focus. However, Kidd was slightly faster. 130, 100, 80, finally closing the distance to 50 meters in an instant.

『Execution』 Hm?!”

The moment Kidd used the skill, the sky suddenly filled with dark shadows. Despite a foreboding feeling, he couldn’t stop the skill he had already cast. Bang! A single gunshot rang out.

“Kiiii…yah!”

One Manticore turned into ashes and plummeted to the ground. But it wasn’t the Manticore-Luger. Another Manticore had suddenly come flying and intersected the straight line between Kidd and Luger, crashing to the ground and contorting its body.

“This… Are you telling me you predicted my movements?!”

Kidd exclaimed in surprise, looking back. Kijung was engaged in combat with another group of Manticores, unaware that one had slipped away, better than anyone else could understand Kidd, he could only grit his teeth in regret. (To be continued…)
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“Would he have seen through this monster-themed deception?”

『Again… a… worthy… human.』

“Hmm?!”

Kidd’s head snapped up at the sudden voice.

Closing the distance with Manticore-Luger meant getting that much closer to the group of monsters. Kidd’s eyes now saw the form of a chimera again. He also knew well which monster stood bandaged at the forefront of those chimeras.

“Ghibrid?”

As Kidd mentioned ‘Ghibrid’, 13 rounds of bullets were fired.

– 『But… Holy… The Manticore is… shrinking-』

Beyond the successive gunshots, Ghibrid’s voice was heard once more. All bullets hit their mark, yet Ghibrid suffered no damages except for holes in the bandages.

“Indeed, attack nullified. As rumored. But this skill-”

『Miss… first, miss… come back. You… later…』

Kidd attempted to use a skill, unless Ghibrid’s last words were not meant for him.

“Me? Later?”

At that moment, Ghibrid shrunk within the chimeras he led.

“Oh no! Are you running away from us!”

As Ghibrid disappeared from sight behind the dripping mass, Kidd could no longer continue the attack.

『Arghh! Are these brats running away! Kidd! There, manticore! Take them all down!』

Kijung’s voice reached Kidd’s ears.

Kidd quickly looked up. Manticore-Luger locked eyes with him for a moment before flapping its wings towards Ghibrid and the chimeras.


“Wait! Luger-… No, listening is probably out of the question. This… foolish act.”

That’s not the real Luger; it’s a monster. It was obvious that they couldn’t communicate, but Kidd realized how flustered he was and composed himself.

The Manticore group, now fighting with Kijung, took a defensive stance around Manticore-Luger and headed towards the chimeras.

『Haa, haa, why didn’t you fire? Or wait, why did they suddenly turn back? It was like this last time too.』

“I don’t know.”

『You don’t know? Didn’t you see that Ghibrid was right in front of you, which caused your attack to fail?』

Kijung caught his breath and spoke to Kidd. The tone of the words seemed subtly eerie as if trying to dig out information from him, but Kidd seemed unfazed by it all. However, Kidd didn’t dislike Kijung. Wasn’t he the one who helped him solely focus on the ‘duel’? Fiddling with his tattered hat, Kidd spoke to Kijung.

“Perhaps you have something to do with it. Ghibrid’s nemesis might have been closer than you think.”

“What? What do you mean?”

“Just tell Leeha everything. And add that I fought someone called ‘Luger.'”

“Huh? Oh, right! Earlier, what did ‘Luger’ mean?”

Kijung tried to press Kidd for more information, but Kidd didn’t share any further details. A sense of incompleteness and unease loomed over his mind, as if cut off in the middle of a conversation.

“Gahh-!”

Kidd accelerated towards the contaminated forest of the World Tree.

“Hey, wait! Answer me before you go! Wait! Kidd! What’s happening?”

Kijung tried to call out to him, but Kidd had already reached top speed. With the 『Dinosaur Transformation』, Kijung hesitated to pursue him but decided to let him go.

“Well… since he’s gone, all the looted items belong to me!”

There was a more important task at hand than mere profits – reporting Ghibrid’s tracks back to Ezwen.

“These people are insane. What… they created a land that looks like the surface of the moon?”

Looking at the even more desolate surroundings than before, Kijung shook his head. Could he have dodged such a bombardment? In such unfamiliar terrain, facing monsters capable of endlessly altering the landscape or turning the ground into a sea of flames, could he engage in a 1:1 battle? Sure, it could be covered with the help of 『Dinosaur Transformation』, but Kidd didn’t possess such a thing.


He was only fighting against them with his bare hands and four revolvers, or so the story goes. Most notably, the last words spoken by such a player were, “Is Hyung being restrained by such people?”

Kijung couldn’t understand that it wasn’t merely a form of restraint or a simple rivalry consciousness. What did asking Leeha to convey the truth mean? How much does Kidd acknowledge and consider Kijung? His mind had not grasped that far yet.

After thoroughly looting the corpse of the Manticores for evidence to be submitted, Kijung returned to Ezwen and sent a whisper to Leeha.

“Hyung! Kidd has something to tell you. Are you available now?”

However, there was no response. At that moment, within the Eternal Snow Mountain, two different factions recognized each other. Whooooooo——-

Even as the cold wind howled, Chiyou took in a refreshing breath as if the air was invigorating.

“Indeed… the price of this body is quite something.”

Having caught her breath to a certain extent, the eternal ice began to brighten only now, signifying a significant rise. Yet, the journey towards the Bransylvania Castle was about to begin right at this point.

“Haha! Of course, of course! Making the obvious sound obvious, Chiyou! How much do you think have I invested in cold resistance ever since I was hit by the Ice Witch!”

Crowley spread his coat left and right, revealing vials of various colored potions lined inside.

Producing potions with various effects to the extent that even the creator Crowley himself was sometimes puzzled! Among alchemists, he had a distinctive outsider-like appearance and was the most famous.

“Well, how about it!? Impressive, right? Amazing, huh? Look at this!”

“Uh, yeah. Impressive. Amazing.”

Chiyou clapped her hands as she looked at Crowley, who approached her with his coat open.

Though she thought of him as a pervert and a weirdo, she couldn’t find any traces of it in her expression. Instead of that, after calming down Crowley, she just quietly looked at another supporter.

“Are you really okay without that over there? Even for the sake of our contract, it might be better to just take a sip.”

“Enough. Dealing with such unbelievable things is crazy. This slight cold! With spirit! With passion! With perseverance!”

Fwhoaaaaaah—!

Steam emerged from the body of another supporter.

Drawing out heat as if he would get burned just by touching it, he stared at Chiyou with fiery eyes.


“By the way, you just need to bring me there, right?”

He then pointed to the faint outline of the castle visible far away.

It was only visible because there were no obstacles in the line of sight, but the distance was quite far, not to mention the elevation, making the actual perceived distance even farther.

Chiyou nodded her head.

“Of course. If you safely bring me to that castle and fetch ‘it’…… about the person that Lord Pyro is thinking of.”

“Enough! I got it, I got it.”

Phew, Pyro suddenly softened his irritable temperament.

“The stronger the sense of competition, the easier it is to ignite the fire.”

Watching him like that, Chiyou grinned.

The reason she could pull in Pyro, who was a descendant of a hero and had participated in the expedition to the New Continent, was simple. It was because Chiyou noticed during the expedition and even afterward that Pyro had peculiar feelings about ‘a certain person.’

While various incidents unfolded in the New Continent, ‘that person’ gained fame with dazzling feats, but Pyro, who was supposed to shine with perseverance and passion, had not yet been able to play a role close to the lead. A person who wants to stand out more than anyone else.

Yet, someone who hasn’t had the chance to do so. What kind of emotions might such a person have? Chiyou accurately captured that.

“Huf, one must know that as they shine brighter, the surrounding darkness also grows… Well, it’s more convenient for me if that guy remains clueless.”

“Chiyou-nim! Someone is coming up from below the mountain! About four of them!”

Yamato’s urgent shout shattered Chiyou’s pleasant daydream.

Both Crowley and Pyro turned their gaze towards Chiyou, of course.

“What? Who? Here?”

“Yes, that’s right. Let me check for a moment. 『Owl’s-』

Shshoo—

In an instant, with a roaring sound, one of Yamato’s members vanished headfirst. Alongside a fierce, chilling sound effect, sprays of blood turned into a fountain of crimson in the moonlit night.

“Aaaah! W-what is this? What’s happening?”

“Kwaaaah?! An, an attack? A-a-attack? This has nothing to do with cold resistance!”

“Get ready for battle! Protect Chiyou-nim!”

Chiyou’s group was suddenly engulfed in panic.

Prea screamed continuously, Crowley flattened himself on the ground covering his head, and Yamato’s remaining five members hesitated and retreated while trying to protect Chiyou. Suddenly realizing the nature of the attack, they saw two people. It was probably…

Pyro pursed his lips and lowered his stance. At the same time, Chiyou, leading them, had a complete change in expression.

“Hey! Damn it! How could they be here-”

Swhish-!

She turned around swiftly, her eyes narrowed. How could Leeha be here? Where exactly is this place!

The foremost thought that came to her mind as soon as the attack occurred was the possibility of betrayal – someone among the people she brought along being a spy. She even went as far as considering that. Not here…? Is it because he’s not here?

Who? Who among those who know about this place ‘Sasuke? Sasuke- No, that couldn’t be true. Then is it just a coincidence? That damned dragon! Did it reveal this location to him!? Of all times!’

Even though she herself was in the picture, it was difficult to identify the culprit based solely on her expression.

Leeha: You’re not calling, are you?

Prea: Of course! How else would they evaluate my acting skills?

Leeha:…

Prea: …If you didn’t give me a heads up, I would have been totally caught off guard, that’s why I did that. Anyway, don’t make any slip-ups on the way up! You’re asking me to trust only you. Oh my! Chiyou looks extremely annoyed. I can see steam coming out of her forehead.

Leeha: Huh, I wanted to see her, but it looks like it’s not going to happen. Can’t we film a video? Hah! Well, in any case, I’ll rely on you on the way up as well!

Prea: Yes, don’t worry!

Chiyou was as sharp-witted as if she had a psychic ability, but as long as you were prepared, you could easily avoid it. Before shooting the first bullet, Leeha sent a whisper to Prea, and she, too, was not an ordinary woman with acting skills. She skillfully deceived Chiyou with appropriate screams and acting, smoothly getting past her. Chiyou shook off her head full of confusion.

Why was Leeha here right now? That had become a secondary issue by now.

“Get ready, everyone! I’m sure those guys don’t know the ins and outs of this place yet. We should go up first!”

Understood!

Whether Leeha was there or not, as long as they went up first, it would be fine. With Yamaoto’s resolute answer, Chiyou’s group set off towards the Bransylvania Castle.

The thought that Leeha had accidentally arrived here, that was the giant trap that now ensnared her ankle.

“Let’s go up!”

“Okay! Let’s go! Ram Hwajung-ssi, lord Arzenmacht, this is a place where cold resistance is needed, so get ready-”

“Get ready?”

Ram Hwajung was already prepared, and Arzenmacht looked at Leeha with a face that said, ‘What do you mean, get ready?’

Is he supposed to prepare for cold when dealing with a silver dragon that manipulates ice?

Leeha smiled mischievously while looking at Arzenmacht’s stern face.

“Oh! I just need to prepare myself.”

Then, she rummaged through her bag and quickly took out a small flask. 『Legendary White Reaper’s White Plague Potion』

Effect: Ice resistance +80% When ingested, induces the 『White Plague』 status

*Note: Abnormal Status maintained when ingested ”

I can only communicate with messenger magic now, so I can’t speak. As I mentioned before, our goal is one! To arrive at Bransylvania Castle before Chiyou’s group. Of course, the best case scenario is to kill all those humans and reach there. Leeha shrugged her shoulders, and Blaugrunn and Ram Hwajung nodded. The only regret was that they couldn’t assassinate Chiyou from the beginning. However, since Chiyou always stayed in the center of the group, even for skilled marksmen like Leeha, shooting her from this distance was a difficult task.

“Most importantly… if she used 『Dance of Sociability』 it will fail.”

If you can’t even create one victim from the initial shot, isn’t that a disadvantage? As long as there is a skill to predict attacks, targeting Chiyou as the initial target is a terribly risky move.

(To be continued…)
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Honk -!

With a sound, Leeha closed his eyes tightly after removing the cork stopper.

‘If my intuition is correct, no, since it’s the Middles Earth, they must have aimed for that. The White Reaper, and the Black Plague-like pun, the White Plague!’

Then, he put the mouth of the flask to his lips and took a mouthful of the white potion.

At that moment, a system notification window popped up in front of Leeha. Bap-bam!

“Huh?!”

An achievement notification sound?

『Abnormal Condition: Inflicted with White Plague.』

『Ice Resistance increased by 80%.』

『1% of total HP will decrease every 1 minute for 100 minutes.』

『All Ice-related buffs will be removed.』

『Recovery skills and potion effects will not apply.』

『Cooldown time after curing White Plague is 1 hour.』

Of course, what Leeha saw first was not an achievement, but a notification of an abnormal condition.

“What is this?!”

Raising my Ice resistance significantly is good. But losing 1% of my HP every minute for 100 minutes?

It meant death in 100 minutes!

“O-Only 100 minutes…? Even if you sprint with all your might, it’s impossible to reach in 100 minutes, right?”

And what are these cruel additional options that even prevent healing?


After taking a sip and regaining 837 HP, the meticulousness of setting the cooldown time to avoid drinking again!

“This crazy Middle Earth, seriously!”

Leeha muttered, looking flustered, and Blaugrunn asked if he was okay.

-No! How can I be okay! Damn it, it’s already started, so let’s chase after them first. The time limit is 100 minutes!

“Yes? 100 minutes?”

“Mm! Mm!”

Swish!

Leeha clenched Black Bass and quickly started climbing.

Leeha: Come with me.

Ram Hwajung also followed his steps with short strides. The two were already climbing up the part where the mountain path turned into ice-covered rocks and pebbles.

Blaugrunn, with a sigh, glanced at Arzenmacht.

“Are you okay, arzenmacht-nim? There might be a battle, and this place is closely related to the Demon King. If you get involved for no reason, it’s best to retreat.”

“It’s interesting.”

“Yes? A battle?”

“No, that human.”

“That human? Oh, Leeha! Are you speaking about Ha Leeha?”

While Blaugrunn looked pleased, blushing as if he had received a compliment, arzenmacht remained silent.

Step by step, the Silver Dragon began to ascend, with the Bronze Dragon quickly following behind.

“Let’s go together, arzenmacht-nim!”

“Roar!”


Faster, everyone!

With an exhilarating(?) shout, Leeha boosted morale and put strength into his thighs.

Fortunately in misfortune, Leeha was pursuing Chiyou. It was a significant advantage not to have to worry about attacks from behind.

“Alright, let’s first confirm things beforehand-”

Leeha had plenty of leisure to briefly check the achievements board.

『Achievement: Inheritor of the Whiter Reaper’s Small Estate (A+)』

Congratulations! You have acquired and used the possessions of the Human Flesh Hunter known as the Whiter Reaper, “Shimo.”

You believe in the words he left and actually used them! Have you ever considered that it might be poison?

Your unusual courage is commendable. Most of all, your courage has led to the whereabouts of other items left by the Whiter Reaper!

Reward: 18 Skill PointsIce Resistance +10%

A map showing the location of the Whiter Reaper’s possessionsYou are the first registrant of the achievement “Inheritor of the Whiter Reaper’s Short Estate.”

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effects will be applied.

Effect: 36 Skill Points, Ice Resistance +20%

“Hmm? Puff-”

Leeha quickly covered his mouth with his palm.

He scolded himself for almost wasting the precious potion, and reread the achievement’s description with a smile that couldn’t be hidden.

‘As expected… the Whiter Reaper, killed 542 men…. The motif was a Finnish soldier. The name is similar to mine, too.’Legendary sniper, Shimo Haewi.

In pursuit of Chiyou, risking high risk for high return, he had only picked up a potion, but to gain this ‘treat’.

‘No, I haven’t gained anything yet. Haven’t you thought that this might be poison? In reality, this is just as good as poison! Until I kill Chiyou and safely empty this potion in my mouth, I haven’t gained anything at all.’

With a determined mindset, Leeha erased his faltering smile and put the map neatly into his bag. Leeha, with an Ice Resistance of 110%, finally revealed the whereabouts of the Eternal Ice.


And at that moment, snowballs started flying in from a distance.

“Eu- Roar-!”

“Stop acting like a frozen ostrich when I’m watching! First, I’ll-”

“『Ice Spear: Mana Charge』

“『Ice Blast』

Crashhh…!

Two ice spells tore through the air faster than Blaugrunn’s casting. Considering size, weight, and speed, one can only wonder about the destructive power of snowballs.

However, Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht were not the type to calculate such things. First, the gigantic ice spear that was launched by Ram Hwajung showed its resistance by piercing through the snowball, and the flying ice bomb exploded towards that location! The solid structure, more akin to chunks of ice rather than soft snow, shattered into pieces in mid-air.

“Uh… heh. It’s not an exaggeration to say it feels like a container box is flying towards us, but it turned into a hailstorm.”

Of course, even Blaugrunn couldn’t help but keep his mouth shut while watching the frozen penalties exchanged between the two.

“Arzenmacht- no, not only Arzenmacht…”

“Blast. Right.”

“Mm. Mana charge.”

Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht exchanged glances for a moment before nodding their heads. The onlookers couldn’t properly determine whether it was a conversation, encouragement, or praise.

“If you’re happy, at least show it a little. Your lack of expression is making me wonder…”

Mumbling to himself silently, but in reality, it was Leeha who was smiling, although mentally he felt secure. Having obtained resistance to the ice attribute and the requirement to defeat incoming ice chunks, there was nothing more to fear.

“Eom! Umumum!”

The opponents might not have gained much speed yet. All they needed to do was chase after them!

“Ha, Ha Leeha! Over there!”

The opening mouth was barely closed by Leeha.

There were no long-range attackers on the enemy’s side. There might be a few among Yamato’s troops, but wasn’t a blizzard akin to a perpetual snowstorm sweeping through the Eternal Snow Mountain?

In an environment where even targeting was impossible, Leeha calculated that there would be no significant opposition. However, it was underestimating the enemy too much.

“Ice Golem.”

“Unlucky.”

Arzenmacht murmured quietly, while Ram Hwajung frowned. An ice golem of Krauli that they had encountered before!

The difference was that, unlike the hastily created one back then, this one had a higher level of completion.

“Approximately 8 in number, a total of 12 entities.”

Kuaaaah…!

Before Blaugrunn’s words could finish, Leeha’s shot was fired fiercely. While it was enough to shatter the ice golem’s chest, the howling blizzard seemed to fill the gap as if to mend it, and the fragmented chest was instantly restored.

Indeed, it’s not going to be easy. Seems like we need to dig deeper into this. Leeha wanted to observe Chiyou’ group beyond the golem, but it was impossible. Being very well-versed in long-range attacks, Chiyou had already started scaling the incline the moment Leeha’s team came into view, as their line of sight had a significant difference at the moment. Pulling out his magazine from his Black Bass, Leeha stood in front a short boy.

“Ha-Ha Leeha, it’s the basics of basics. That’s a golem! And if it’s a golem, we have to destroy the ‘High-Density Mana Core’, right?”

“Mhm, mhm!”

I already know that! Blaugrunn seemed to enjoy not being able to hear Leeha’s excuses, smiling. Leeha’s heart fluttered as he saw the turquoise mana coursing through his body. Ice? And electricity? … Yeah. It’s not seawater. If it’s not seawater, electricity flows. Unless the part with the high-density mana bead is covered with a different material.

“The limits of human alchemy. Moreover, in such high altitudes, a golem with such a tall stature clustered closely together like that? It’s the worst in a situation where clouds are gathering due to a blizzard.”

“Huh? What does that mean?”

Even just by looking at Leeha’s expression, did Blaugrunn already know what question Leeha was going to ask? He smiled and raised his right index finger towards the sky.

“Hah, that’s what I mean. 『Nimbus: Call Lightning』!”

Snap! Sparks flew from Blaugrunn’s fingertip. Without a chance to blink, the electricity flowed into the storm clouds piled up in the sky. Rumble rumble rumble…! Crackle crackle… Leeha: No way… Blaugrunn: A great dragon must always know how to make use of the environment they are given. Leeha looked up at the sky. The clouds continuously spewing out blizzards without faltering must be artificial. Presumably, something imbued with magical energy created it in the sky! Will Leeha stimulate that place and transform his weapon into it!?

“Much more impressive than I thought—” Zap! Zap! Leeha suddenly sat down, startled by the sudden barrage of lightning bolts. Lightning struck randomly, hitting various places including mountaintops. If it’s like this here, what would happen if there were objects higher up, even higher than that…?

“Conductive Effect!”

Flash! Flash! Flash! -! -! -!

Whenever the sound of thunder reached Leeha’s ears, the ice golems crumbled one by one as if following a beat.

“You’ve grown.”

“Thank you, arzenmacht-nim.”

Arzenmacht complimented the smiling Blaugrunn.

It seemed like even Ram Hwajung wanted to say something and muttered, “Impressive. Little dragon.”

Without giving Leeha a chance to be surprised, veins bulged on Blaugrunn’s forehead.

“… I won’t tolerate being called that by you, human, not twice.”

“Careful.”

In that moment, a small crevasse appeared between them, causing them to fall downwards. Ignoring the anger, Blaugrunn and Leeha got flustered.

“Oops! Omeoom!”

Leeha: I told you to watch out for the crevasse. But the two soon floated up again.

“Levitation can be used at any time.”

Arzenmacht cast a spell, and not even Ram Hwajung showed any change in expression.

Feeling disappointed, Leeha continued climbing.

“Wow, what sudden lightning!?”

“Everyone, crouch down! It’s dangerous if you keep your head up!”

『Aerial Shield』!”

The lightning didn’t just eliminate the ice golems.

It also had a dual effect of tying Chiyou’s group’s feet as they climbed higher.

“Tsk, Prea! How’s the situation below?”

Following Chiyou’s command, Prea used an ice elemental to scout below.

“Uh, um- Just a moment- W-well, the lightning melted all the golems! Can you believe it? Instead of shooting lightning bolts, they guided the lightning from the sky-”

“Save the admiration for later!”

“Oops, sorry!”

After silencing Prea, Chiyou glared at Crowley with a somewhat angry expression.

“What’s going on, Crowley? If you said that with 12 ice golems, we could tie them up for at least 30 minutes!”

“Like that’s e-e-ekk!! I wouldn’t be struck by lightning! It’s n-not in my sight!”

“Tsk, we’ll talk about your contract later. First-”

“Uh, snowballs ahead, snowballs! Three of them coming this time!”

(To be continued…)
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As soon as the group stepped in, snowballs came flying at them. Especially for Chiyou and her companions who entered the perennial snow zone earlier than others, it was inevitable that snowballs would come their way. However, the issue this time was their number! In order to dodge three snowballs, they had to scatter over a wide range, which was an uncomfortable evasion method for Chiyou, who wanted to utilize the power of the group.

That’s why she didn’t dodge.

“Pyro, can you handle this?”

“Of course. I knew it when the chunks started flying earlier. Is this my job?”

“I’m not sure if you can melt them… Can I ask you for help?”

Chiyou approached Pyro with a smile in her eyes. Pyro tilted his head from side to side and backed away from her.

“You’re not someone I particularly like either. But I’ll give it a try. It’s part of our ‘contract’.”

Although Pyro wasn’t fond of Chiyou, there was someone he found more detestable. So Pyro was cooperating with her.

“Ughh!”

“The rest of the team, prepare to infuse mana!”

Chiyou ordered Yamato’s members. The reason she brought them from Yamato was simple.

They were shield bearers, had far-sighted vision, and were mana shuttles. They already knew that Pyro’s power was immense, but his mana consumption was equally fast. They also knew the news that Ram Hwayeon of Hwahong Guild had created a mana infusion device for Ram Hwajung.

That’s why she chose them.

“It cost a lot of money, but it was worth it. Huh, Hwahong is still immature. Though the guild’s internal oversight was thorough, did they forget who made it?”

If they could extract the information on how the mana infusion device was made and replicate it for Pyro to use.

“When Pyro signals, execute immediately.”

“There’s no need…!”

“What?”

“I’m not just here to play around! 『Blazing Fury』!”


Pyro took a martial stance and thrust both hands forward.

Chiyou knew the form of the skill he had been using until now. Giant and intense flames emanating from his body! Didn’t that thick blaze burn everything?

However, this time, there was no sign of such appearance in the skill.

“Is this… Heat haze?”

There was no visible dragon. Instead, a force that seemed to make everything seem like it was wavering wildly spread through the air.

It was an enormous range of the Heat haze.

“What kind of heat is this?”

“Chiyou, step back!”

Everyone could tell that an unseen heat was starting to dominate the air.

“No, wait. This…”

Yamato’s members stopped trying to protect Chiyou in a panic and froze in their tracks. Chiyou squinted her eyes and examined the snowballs flying towards them. Surely, they must be shooting towards their location at an incredible speed. In other words, the size of the snowballs should continue to increase to be considered normal.

However, it was the opposite.

“Chiyou-nim! Th-the snowballs are melting!”

“To have three snowballs of that size melt so quickly…”

Chiyou couldn’t hide the corners of her mouth twitching.

Compared to the explosion caused by Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht’s combo attack that destroyed one snowball, Chiyou had nothing to worry about at all.

“Well, this much is nothing to worry about.”

Pyro stood up from his horse stance and turned around.

“It seems I do have an eye for people after all.”

“Even if you say that, it doesn’t make you any better. Let’s stick to the contract, just the contract.”


“Of course. I’ve imposed such a hefty penalty in the contract, you have no choice but to abide by it, right? Let’s go quickly.”

Pyro melted the snowball quite rapidly, but it still took some time. Above all, securing Blaugrunn’s Thunderbolt was a significant achievement.

“Enemies spotted in the rear! Approximately 300m away! They are coming! Chiyou-nim, give orders!”

The group had already advanced to a close distance.

Chiyou looked at Pyro, Crowley, and the members of Yamato once again, biting her lip.

‘Considering the power of Leeha… there’s nothing good about fighting head-on right now. There’s nothing to gain by killing them. In that case-‘

With a graceful step, Chiyou took the lead. Her judgment was to postpone combat as much as possible.

“Advance first! Low stance, quickly!”

She knew that patience would bring opportunities.

“Ung ung, um-um!”

Who allowed you to do that!?

Even though there were elevation differences and the shape was diagonal, Leeha raised Black Bass at the mere 300 meters. Just one shot, if Leeha could land just one shot, there would be no need to endure the danger here.

Whooosh!

However, aiming was not easy.

The strong wind that made his upper body sway made even shooting extremely unstable.

Missed!

Ha Leeha quickly opened the scope cap to increase the aiming accuracy.

“Ooh!”

Ha Leeha almost cursed under his breath.

“Why are you doing that, Leeha-nim?”


Ignoring Blaugrunn’s question, Ha Leeha took his eyes off the scope and wiped the scope lens with the collar of her coat. Blaugrunn chuckled, but his expression didn’t brighten up again.

“Dammit! How am I supposed to deal with reality suddenly hitting me here!”

Leeha was filled with anger. He had encountered such situations even when he went to catch a ice ostrich, but the current situation was far more serious than back then.

“It’s not just a fortress anymore. It has completely turned into a block of ice.”

Leeha was in a state where most of the lens functions were already lost.

“Why did you stop, human.”

Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht also approached with troops. The brief opportunity that had arisen had disappeared without a trace. *whoosh* He let out a sigh instead of answering.

He already castigated himself. He had underestimated the blizzard that was raging through the field. Perhaps it was because he had experienced something similar before. He had undergone sniper training during his military days, but replicating the cold of Korea and the Himalayas was an entirely different story. He should have thought and prepared more.

“Stupid. Shooting with bare eyes in such an unstable environment… means you have to hit at least two shots, right?”

He realized once again that this situation was not easy. Maybe considering this place similar to the previous one was his biggest mistake.

“No one to blame. It seems like using a scope for long-range sniping was doomed to fail from the start.”

The snowstorm was severely limiting his field of vision. While it would be better to have a closer range, getting closer than 150m was unrealistic if he considered the enemy’s countermeasures. If he thought the opponent would defend, the time he could afford would be around 1 second. The closer the distance, the more difficult it would be to track the target’s movements.

“Besides, Chiyou has already experienced the characteristics of this mountain once.”

In addition, she had a skill to predict attacks in advance. If he wanted to hit perfectly, he would have to guide the target’s movement in the desired direction before sniping, or lift it up into the air to make it harder to move further.

“It won’t be easy. But there is no way around it.”

He remembered one of the abilities he possessed as he walked. That ability which could bring everything living to a complete standstill in an instant. He had the terror spirit with him.

“Blaugrunn, could you help clear up the surrounding debris with Arzenmacht?”

There were also two dragons as aides. Blaugrunn immediately nodded and rushed to Arzenmacht.

“Arzenmacht! We need to engage in combat with the humans far ahead! Would you be able to help?”

“Do I have to help?”

“Yes, you must! We need to eliminate them right here to prevent the Demon King’s Army from gaining more power.”

Arzenmacht’s expression remained unchanged. He did not even nod his head. However, he was already stepping forward.

“Good! Now- Huh?”

“Ram Hwajung! It’s dangerous, so stay back!”

Ram Hwajung did not leave Arzenmacht’s side.

Blaugrunn showed a moment of perplexity, knowing well that he couldn’t stop her. Above all, there was something more important now than Ram Hwajung’s safety. The speed at which Chiyou and her party were moving had increased.

Having already experienced it once, Chiyou was heading towards the Bransylvania Castle at an incredible speed after eliminating the risks of perfect cold resistance, crevasses, and snowballs.

“I’ll tie my foot, so I’ll leave the snowballs to you.”

“No.”

As Blaugrunn soared into the air, arzenmacht also took flight, with Ram Hwajung alongside.

“Let us.”

Arzenmacht pointed his finger toward Chiyou’s group.

“Do you see that?”

“Yeah.”

“They’re blocking the way.”

“Fine.”

Arzenmacht and Ram Hwajung finished their brief conversation and began casting spells.

Aaah…!

Blue mana particles began gathering around the two in the sky.

“They seem to have a strange harmony.”

One who briefly stopped due to the danger of the crevasse felt a sense of solitude standing alone on the ground.

But even that was short-lived, as they were truly astonished by the size of the mana created by the two.

In terms of casting and mana concentration, it was difficult to imagine how powerful that magic would be.

『Ice Wall』.”

The first spell cast was Arzenmacht’s skill. Almost simultaneously, Ram Hwajung also opened her mouth.

『Frost Willow: Cease』.”

Paaah-

The result of the deep blue mana that went out of control was visible even to the naked eye.

A snowstorm erupted, creating an ice wall over 25 meters high near the peak of a snow-covered mountain, and a colossal willow tree that seemed to sway as if alive!

“T-That-! That’s that thing she used during the guild battle with Byulcho before!? I knew they could combine Ice Wall with it?”

Leeha marveled. Arzenmacht writhed upon landing on the ground.

“Frost Willow?”

“Yes, ice Wall, sir.”

“Oh.”

They picked up their pace to catch up with Chiyou’s group and engaged in conversation. Arzenmacht seemed to completely understand Ram Hwajung’s peculiar way of speaking.

Leeha barely managed to guess the gist of their conversation.

“Did Ram Hwajung focus on attacking effects rather than obstructing the path, thinking Arzenmacht would use Ice Wall? If so, that’s even more surprising. Did she predict what the dragon Arzenmacht would do even though they met just a few hours ago?”

“If I pull this off… Ah!”

Leeha was engrossed in the amusement of the situation when suddenly the ground beneath them felt lighter.

“Crevasse! Everyone be careful, 『Levitation』!”

Being tied to Chiyou’s group did not make trekking through the mountains any easier. The crevasse that split apart in an instant, turning into a cliff, was nothing short of hell.

Luckily, everyone except Leeha was capable of flight magic.

“Um, um! Umph, umph!”

As the enormous ice wall and whimpering ice willow trees came into view again, Leeha raised Black Bass once more.

“Since there’s no detour, let’s snipe Chiyou from here.”

Leeha’s calculations, thinking that Chiyou would be stuck due to Frost Willow’s indiscriminate attacks and the ice wall, were completely off.

“Indeed, is Chiyou just being Chiyou?”

There was no one in front of Ice Wall. Just as Leeha was about to ready Black Bass again, Blaugrunn, who had rushed forward, shouted, “There’s a small hole beneath Ice Wall!”

“A hole? You can’t melt the wall with fire…”

Arzenmacht even had a look of confusion. However, there was clearly a hole just big enough for one person to move through.

Leeha and Ram Hwajung immediately caught on to whose doing it was.

The perpetrator must be the only one powerful enough to melt the Silver Dragon’s ice magic without even flinching a hint of fire energy.

“Healing potion. Crowley.”

They managed to handle all attacks effortlessly without exerting great effort.

Leeha realized once again that they were formidable opponents.

“Let’s go too.”

At Leeha’s command, everyone began to move.

Even after swiftly passing through the thick ice walls, they couldn’t spot Chiyou’s group.

They only saw Bransylvania Castle appearing once more in the distance. Surely, Chiyou’s group must have accelerated towards that direction.

“Oh, they’re not ordinary indeed! We must catch up quickly.”

Leeha felt a bit anxious.

“They’ve already flown nearly halfway…?”

(To be continued…)
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White Plague consumes 1% of 10 every minute.

There naturally was a difference in speed between climbing Mt. Mannyeonseol and moving on flat ground, and it had been about 40 minutes since the onset of White Plague. The problem was not just the decrease in 840.

Middle Earth could confirm how much HP was left through the character window, but intuitively, it could be known without opening the window to assist the user’s view.

In other words, as time passed, the lower sights would be blocked.

“Leeha-nim? Are you okay?”

“Um um! Umpf!”

“Oppa, potion.”

“Um, ohpf.”

Ignoring Blaugrunn and Ram Hwajung’s concerns, Leeha firmly nodded and continued forward. There was no need for potions or healing. Otherwise, shouldn’t White Plague have nothing to fear?

If his HP falls below 20%, it’ll become difficult to snipe. Shooting with the naked eye would be even harder. Therefore, the actual time limit was 40 minutes ahead.

Leeha’s heart started to beat faster. Urgently moving forward, smashing the incoming snowballs, about ten minutes later, he finally noticed a stream of fire shooting up into the sky.

-Over there!

“Huh? That fireball… is coming this way?”

The fiery stream shooting into the air was fiercely aimed towards where Ehah and the others were as if alive and writhing.

“Human.”

“Wha!?”

Arzenmacht muttered while looking somewhere, and Leeha instinctively raised the Black Bass towards that place.

『Mana Clairvoyance』!”

Zzziiing-!


One person buried in the white snow!

Leeha immediately pulled the trigger towards that place.

Pew-ahhhh!

“Damn it! Are they leaving one as a bait?”

Probably one of the Yamato members. Planning not just to slow them down but observing Leeha’s group and using it as a control tower to guide where Pyro’s skills should go?!

Despite knowing this, the group could not help but delay a little.

“Fire is coming! Leeha-nim! I will summon the mystical creatures!”

-It should be the most potent skill Pyro can use! Our most potent skill, too-

『Absolute Retribution』

『Absolute Territory: Mana Seizure』

As Leeha urgently issued orders towards Blaugrunn, arzenmacht and Ram Hwajung teamed up once again.

The flying fire froze in its tracks. Watching a scene that was so difficult to even draw properly in reality, Leeha almost choked on the potion of a hundred undead soldiers.

Leeha’s group withstood the attacks from Chiyou’s group, but the counterattack from Chiyou’s group also failed to exert significant power.

The fierce battle of advance and retreat continued without either side showing any sign of yielding, and the mountain range made of everlasting snow and ice was being completely devastated.

Nevertheless, the pace of both groups never slowed down.

Fortunately, Leeha’s group, accompanied by the ‘Dragon’, was somewhat faster.

– Over there!

Leeha shouted.

When they were about 500 meters away from the Bransylvania Castle, they finally spotted the Chiyou party.

The distance from Leeha’s position to the Chiyou party was approximately 15,021!


Leeha multitasked.

One task was aiming at the Chiyou party running towards the entrance of Bransylvania Castle.

“Hee-woo-woo…)

However, Leeha couldn’t aim accurately at Chiyou.

It was because the members of Yamato were shielding and protecting Chiyou from the back.

But what if they continued to stick together?

“Think of aiming at a point about 307 steps ahead.”

Not using a scope. Instead, without the cumbersome click adjustments, aiming became even faster.

Most importantly, this approach increased the likelihood of Chiyou’s skill not activating. Chiyou’s skill 『Social Dance』 notifies the user in advance when they become the target of an attack.

However, isn’t Leeha aiming only for the Yamato members!

“It’s your grave that you dug, Chiyou!”

Leeha finished aiming. And then, proceeded with the second task.

– Fireo, what’s going on here? Why are you there?!

Without laying eyes on Fireo, Leeha sent a mental message. Revealing the question now could risk leaking spy information, so Leeha held back until now.

The first reason for confirming Fireo’s true intentions and why he joined was to uncover the truth.

-… 』 Leeha, you don’t know-

“Now, 『Curve Shot』.”

The purpose of Leeha’s mental message was to pressure and delay Fireo in preparing for the attack in order to target these two aspects. The bullets below bypassed the members of Yamato at the end of Chiyou and flew towards the anticipated point three meters ahead of them.

There was definitely Chiyou. It was not just a simple hunch. When about twenty people moved, the most important factor was where they were located in the group.

Countless sniping experiences in Middle Earth and practical knowledge acquired in reality guided the bullets to pinpoint Chiyou’s location.


“Whoa…”

The problem was that there was another person there.

“Wool!?”

Before the sound could be heard, a tingling sensation in the bullets signaled the outcome.

“Spirit? And that rock wall…?”

A towering stone wall rising from the center of Chiyou’s group. At this point, only one person could use skills related to stones.

“Prea! Are you betraying us here!?”

Prea’s defensive shield utilizing the earth mystical creatures saved Chiyou’s life.

※ ※ – “Preaaa! What are you doing!?”

– Why, why?! You asked me to completely take Chiyou’s side, right? – “I can’t believe it!”

Prea’s astonished voice echoed in the mind. So much so that a bit of a healing potion dripped through crack in her lips as if she had gritted her teeth.

Since the start of climbing the snowy mountain, Blaugrunn had maintained continuous contact with Prea. Not only did he confirm this was not a trap through his own reconnaissance, but he also pursued after checking it several times.

But to betray at the last moment

I shook my head. There was no room for words. At this point, I had to believe!

“If even a glimpse of Chiyou is visible, I could target the Terror Spirit, but not now.”

Targeting skills are unusable if the target is not visible. But even if used without a target, there was also the possibility of Chiyou running without noticing it.

“You can’t use a skill that costs 1,000 mana per hour like a gamble. Now, I have only 2,300 mana left. Natural recovery is a little, but it will only recover to 2,300. If summon the Terror Spirit, there will be about 1,350 mana left.”

In that situation, I couldn’t use the Double Bullet that consumes 600 mana or the Curve Shot that consumes 900 mana in succession.

There was no room for regret for Haah at losing a valuable opportunity.

“Let’s try to catch them for now! 『Chain Lightning』!”

“Snowball. 『Ice Spear』.”

“Hmm… 『Ice Blast』.”

It was a situation that perfectly fit the saying “add insult to injury.”

Blaugrunn attacked Chiyou’s group, causing Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht to focus on the snowball coming at them.

The snowballs flying from the Brunsilveinia Castle became more challenging to shatter as they approached the castle. Multiple lightning beams shot out as if grazing over the snow.

“Huh?”However, Jeong-Geok was suddenly blocked by a protruding jaw.

“Uh, uh-huh! I knew this was coming! I had a hunch!”

A bizarre and crude laughter echoed.

The identity of the sudden jaw revealed that the bulging eye clusters were small snow golems.

For Crowley, who controlled dozens of stone golems, this was not a difficult task. The magic of the Jeong-Geok lineage was absorbed by the eyes and spread through the snow golems, losing its power in the process.

“Push them back with force! There are only eight left, and the castle is right in front of us now!”

“Understood!”

“Whoomp!”

Boom!

A burst of crimson light erupted in front of them.

Whether it was a time limit or the distance to the Bransylvania castle, it was time to unleash all their power.

“Gomtangi! Take out the enemies in front!” Issuing orders to Koma in place of Ee-Ha, Blaugrunn accelerated even more.

While the snow golems blocked with their bodies, ee-Ha’s march did not stop.

『Barbed Arrows』

“Urgh! Ugh!”

Despite the resistance from Chiyoh’s side, it was far from enough to face Ee-Ha and his party.

After knocking down one of Yamato’s members rushing towards them, ee-Ha passed a message to Pyro once again.

“Pyro, I don’t know what’s going on, but you’ve been thinking wrong for a while! Kill Chiyoh now.”

-You’re right, your words are always right. You are truly remarkable.

“What are you talking about? You know who Chiyoh is! You are a descendant of a hero, so why are you sympathizing with Mae?”

Woosh!

As if responding to Ee-Ha’s words, a massive stream of fire surged from Pyro’s body.

As if to melt all the nearby snow and ice, the fiery stream rocketed into the sky, momentarily calming Ee-Ha’s momentum.

“What does that have to do with anything?”

-What? -It’s a game, what does it matter? The priority is to eliminate someone you don’t like.

-You… What kind of- Continent’s peace, what, I don’t know! I’m ignorant! Why am I seeking approval more than you- Beep…!The massive pillar of flame rising towards the sky thickened as it ascended.

“I don’t understand the reason for this at all! It’s so frustrating!”

The vein on his temple bulged. As the pillar blocked their path completely, the few remaining snow golems covered the front to hide Pyro from view.

The flames beyond the blaze were so intense that even Chiyou’s eyes couldn’t pierce through.

“What is this? Just because of that trivial reason, you chose Chiyou’s side?”

Inferiority complex.

Leeha, who had thought there was some grand conspiracy or greed at play, was utterly dumbfounded. Little did Leeha know that the seed of his inferiority complex had sprouted from the “Fire Flower.”

When it came to fire, Leeha prided himself on being the strongest in Midas. His stubborn nature broke through at that moment, evolving into enmity towards Leeha.

“Damn it, if I had known it was such a ridiculous reason, I would’ve just shot a Mana Evaporating Sphere right off the bat. I never thought I could persuade such a stubborn human with mere words.”

But predicting such a scenario was impossible. Until then, he had been described as at least simple, ignorant, passionate, and persevering. Thus, the idea that he became an enemy over mere inferiority seemed unworthy of consideration.

“You’re arrogant, human! Do you dare think you can block a dragon’s path with that level of flame magic?”

Blaugrunn cast a lightning spell with an angry expression. Despite his words, everyone knew that as long as he didn’t kill Pyro, they couldn’t advance towards the Bransylvania Castle anymore.

“Blaugrunn!”

“Alek- whoaat!?”

Arzenmacht wrapped Blaugrunn, who was casting in mid-air, and batted him away. As Leeha turned around in surprise, he caught a glimpse of a black shadow passing through the air where Blaugrunn had been.

Ring… ring…

Simultaneously, an alarm went off in his mind. Leeha knew exactly what the alarm signified.

“Hmm…? Are you Bronze and Silver fish in the Illusion Lake? Ah! There’s also an unlucky Leeha in the mix? If I slit your throat here, not a lot of blood would come out. Phew, lucky, isn’t it? Kil kil.”

Casually twirling his staff, ramwajeong grabbed Leeha’s clothes. Her trembling voice revealed the approaching figure from behind.

“Bluebeard.”

With Pyro in front and Bluebeard chasing behind, Leeha’s group found themselves surrounded.

Leeha alternated his gaze between the front and the back. Bluebeard at this moment! – Prea said nothing – no, did she not even tell Prea. Leeha’s mind was on the verge of exploding in complexity. When did Chiyou call Bluebeard? Or should he have assumed from the start that Bluebeard would come here? Although he had requested help from the Silver Dragon just in case, he hadn’t really thought that Bluebeard would show up, so he couldn’t help but be flustered.

(To be continued…)
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“If Bluebeard is here, this quest would have been solved long ago. But since that wasn’t the case, Chiyou thought of calling Crowley and Pyro as helpers… Why did Bluebeard appear? What happened?”

If he’s here, why call other helpers?

With just Bluebeard, isn’t handling quests like this a piece of cake, if not a walk in the park?

It was beyond Chiyou’s speculation to know the full story of the quest she received. But it’s already happened. What good would worrying do?

“Leeha, hurry and go!”

“Umm!”

“The enemy of the clan, le. Unforgivable.”

“Ohhh!? At the edge of adulthood – no, have you just entered the realm of Ancients? Talking about not forgiving me? Great! Great! I want to break your heart.”

Swish!

Bluebeard disappeared in an instant. Arzenmacht’s figure also vanished.

A sound of something breaking and mixing in the air echoed constantly, disturbing Leeha’s ears. Leeha had to make a decision. What should she do?

Using the Halucination skill is also a huge risk. Didn’t Bahamut take a long time even near the Divine Staff? Moreover, in a place where the space itself is blocked, if Bluebeard dominated the space additionally?

If he just recklessly used mana, he would end up wasting 800.

‘Then is there only one answer?’

Considering the reason why Bluebeard is catching up so late, it was simple.

‘It means what’s inside is that important. Capturing Chiyou is a priority over Bluebeard.’

Leeha: Blaugrunn, please deal with Arzenmacht and Bluebeard! Koma too! The absolute rule to follow is never to die. If it’s dangerous, transform into your Dragon form and safely withdraw.

“Understood. May Leeha stay safe as well.”

“Umm.”


Looking into Blaugrunn’s eyes, Chiyou nodded.

“Ice Oh-”

“Umm! Umm!”

Then, Leeha reached out and pulled Ram Hwajung back, turning her around.

“Ice. It’s dangerous.”

“Eh?”

Ram Hwajung pointed to the sky, making it clear that they needed to acknowledge the danger of Arzenmacht and help him.

Leeha: The priority is to catch Chiyou! Arzenmacht is also trying to block Bluebeard for that purpose!

“But… it’s dangerous.”

Despite Leeha’s strong words, Ram Hwajung’s eyes sparkled.

Seeing her somewhat gloomy expression, Leeha couldn’t help but feel uneasy. He could only hope that the moment when Ram Hwajung’s power was needed was now and he could only hope for it.

Leeha: Understood. Then give me Pyro’s fire. Can you do that much?

“Yeah.”

Leeha: And help Arzenmacht, but if it’s dangerous, run away without hesitation. Haha, if Ram Hwajung dies, your sister’s grief will have no end. Okay?

Leeha asked, but Ram Hwajung was already casting something. She wasn’t the type to run away even if told to.

‘And if possible… I can only hope that it will be a great leap for Ram Hwajung.”

Above all, there was also the fact that Leeha’s mind held other possibilities.

Leeha: Pyro’s fire is very powerful. Ram Hwajung will need a significant amount of mana to extinguish that fire alone without Arzenmacht’s help.

Leeha continuously fired at the snow golems to make Ram Hwajung’s magic a little easier, but he didn’t achieve much effect.

As expected, the snow golems, made of snow, kept dispersing and regrouping, neutralizing the damage, proving to Leeha that they were the worst matchup for him.


Leeha suddenly felt a strange premonition. Arzenmacht, Blaugrunn, and Koma were holding back Bluebeard in a 3:1 ratio. The loud noise continued and Leeha also spent time reloading three bullet chambers in preparation to aim at Pyro. Even after this amount of time passed, the mana pearls being absorbed by her did not stop.

“What kind of magic is she trying to cast?”

Just as Leeha looked up with surprise, Ram Hwajung finally raised her hand.

…『Abyssal Ice Fragment』』

Among the skills in the flame system, Hellfire is known to be the most powerful. The name, effects, and description are roughly known, but how many people currently possess it, where they learned it from, is unknown.

One of the strongest skills in the ice system, the polar opposite of Hellfire. Generally, the most powerful single target skill possessed by the Ice Mage, known for its wide-range ability!

Ram Hwajung was not in a state to qualify to fully use the skill, but it was enough for her level.

“Woww..!”

Leeha could see the pillar of fire rising from Pyro’s body transforming into solid, icy texture. The Abyssal Ice, devoid of blue or transparency, struck the air as it was.

In a bizarre spectacle, Leeha, momentarily bewildered, quickly regained his composure and pulled the trigger.

Bang, bang, bang-!

The Snow Golems no longer regenerated.

In the spot where the snowballs had scattered, an ice fragment resembling Pyro was making an angry expression.

Of course, it was only an ice sculpture.

“Py, Pyro is dead- Pyro is dead!”

“Contact Chiyou! Quickly—”

Leeha discovered three members of Yamato supplying mana from behind Pyro.

-Baang.

Three bullets shot pierced through all three members of Yamato.

A total of six Yamato members have been assassinated so far. And if Pyro is also dead, how many members are left?


“Crowley, Prea… and Chiyou.”

Only three.

If they could utilize Prea’s abilities, there would be no need for assistance from anyone else.

Leeha: Then, Ram Hwajung! I’ll leave it to you from here!

“Haa, haa, okay!”

Ram Hwajung sprinted towards the battlefield where Arzenmacht was located, gasping for breath.

Leeha now ran towards the approaching Bransylvania Castle, now looming in an imposing size.

Prea: I’m inside the castle now. Hah, it’s so dark here.

Leeha: Tell me where you’re heading next.

While listening to Prea’s inner thoughts, they could see a snowball flying towards Arzenmacht alongside Bluebeard and Blaugaroon as they headed towards the entrance of Bransylvania Castle.

Leeha felt a strange sense of discomfort at that scene, but nothing more.

“Right!”

The already open door of Bransylvania Castle revealed itself before them. Leeha leaped into the darkness without hesitation.

* * *

“Hmm?!”

Despite there being only a slight difference in just one door, Leeha felt a warm energy enveloping their body.

“It’s warm here. Can we even use potions now?”

The inside of the castle was so warm that it was unimaginable given the location where the castle was situated.

But why is there not even a single source of light in this castle?

Twinkle!

A brief glimmer of light flashed within the windowless castle.

“Prea?”

It was a familiar light.

Leeha immediately realized that it was a trace left by the light elemental summoned by Prea.

“But what was that just now?”

Through the trace left by the light elemental, the surroundings briefly came into view.

“Stone statues? … Are they all the same?”

It wasn’t items carved with the figures of animals walking on four legs. Stone statues resembling human figures were scattered all around.

“No, that’s not it. Now is not the time to worry about such things. We need to approach one clue at a time; once we get close to one clue, the next one will appear. We must follow that.”

Running towards where the light was just moments ago, Leeha remembered the location. The sound of Leeha’s footsteps echoed through the castle interior.

Leeha: Prea, where are you going?

Prea: I’m not sure either. It feels like we’re going up the stairs, but Chiyou isn’t giving us any hints at all. I don’t even know how many floors there are.

Leeha: Damn it, make sure not to leave any traces of the light spirit!

Leeha loaded the bullets into the magazine of Black Bass and found the stairs. The traces of the light were buried here and there, but it required considerable attention to discover them.

‘It’s not just a matter of darkness. The visibility is too low. We have only about 40% left… around 20 minutes. If we don’t find Chiyou within that time, it’ll be game over.’

Already, almost half of the visibility was clouded. Leeha could have refilled the flask with healing potion, but they didn’t want to take on such an adventure. The reuse cooldown time was a whopping one hour. If any abnormal status occurred within the castle during that time, not only would the skill cooldown and duration be affected, but various debuffs like a 100 reduction in firepower and decreased movement speed would also be incurred.

‘Alright, these are the stairs. We just need to follow the traces. If Prea didn’t head underground and do something like this, I’ll catch up with her soon. Jellypong, dimensional movement! Let’s go up as fast as we can!’

Leeha gripped the railing of the stairs tightly and commanded Jellypong. Luckily, Jellypong, recognized as an ‘item’, didn’t require verbal commands for skill casting!

『Myongmyong!』

Jellypong’s tentacles protruded from Leeha’s chest. Leeha could see stone statues not only in various parts of the stairs but also in places presumed to be alone on each floor.

“If they’re so visible even in the darkened visibility, there must be an enormous amount of them… What could it be? They couldn’t have turned into monsters, could they?”

The sound of tapping on the castle walls echoed throughout Bransylvania Castle. The sound was loud enough for Chiyou to hear.

※ ※

The mini lantern that Chiyou pulled out only illuminated a very small area.

“Is it just about going this way? Just going to the top?”

“Quiet down, Prea.”

“Hehe, what about the statues around us? Shall we try melting them? I have a petrification antidote potion!”

“Don’t do unnecessary things, Crowley. Speed is crucial right now.”

“We need to know where we’re going to enjoy the journey! Oh well, let’s just go up.”

『The Bat Hiding in Bransylvania Castle』

Description:

“I’ve finally discovered where that cunning creature is hiding. But, it’s a place I can’t enter directly. You need to go in and deliver ‘My Call’ to it. Oh, and if you die in there, I can’t help you, so remember to be careful, okay?”

Bluebeard had finally found his beloved disciple.

He instructed Chiyou to find “The Blood Maiden” Bathory hiding from the eyes of the United Humanity in Bransylvania Castle and deliver Bluebeard’s will.

Objective: Persuade Bathory inside Bransylvania Castle

Reward: ?

Failure Conditions: Death within Bransylvania Castle or loss of ‘The Call of Bluebeard’ item

Penalty for Failure: The loss of the ‘Bluebeard’s Call’ item. To Chiyou, the item is crucial as it reveals Bathory’s location.

“It’s not just about delivering the item; my mission includes persuading Bathory after that. If I can accomplish that…”

Croak~ “Huh? What’s that sound?”

When Chiyou tilted her head, Crowley started panicking.

“Aha, he’s here. He’s here! Leeha has arrived!”

“Is this as far as you go? But how do we know if it’s Leeha or not?”

Startled, Prea spoke naturally with a perplexed expression. Chiyou’s crumpled face brightened instantly.

“Crowley! Prea! Hurry, go down and stop Leeha!”

“What??”

“I said stop him! Crowley, you haven’t forgotten our contract, have you?”

“Isn’t it enough that I brought him here?”

“Strictly speaking, it’s cooperation until my quest is completed. Hurry up!”

Upon Chiyou’s urging, Crowley sullenly rummaged through his bag. Taking out a vial, he shook it vigorously, and soon a murky fluorescent light emanated from it.

“Prea, please cooperate too. Even if it’s not an ice spirit, you can use something else, right?”

“Yes, I got it.”

Taking a steady position, Prea complied with Chiyou’s command. Contrary to Leeha’s concerns, as soon as he entered, Prea immediately got rid of the ice spirit. If only Prea had mentioned this earlier, he would have dispelled the potion much sooner. Leaving the two on the stairs, Chiyou dashed forward.

‘It must be Leeha. Well, don’t expect me to be grateful…’, a smile crept onto Chiyou’s lips as she continued to climb up the stairs swiftly. Despite her initial dilemma on how to send Crowley and Prea back, things seemed to have worked out well after all.

(to be continued…)
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“Just 5 minutes. Just hold them off for 5 minutes. It would be nice if we could annihilate all those bastards.”

However, she knew the possibility of that was low.

Her guess was that Leeha or Prea would be the ones coming up.

How many of those bugs had come up? The Bransylvania Castle was much taller and grander than she had seen in the game.

“We’re almost there. The item’s heartbeat is getting faster. Just a little more and—”

Chiyou was startled for a moment and glanced down below. The sound coming from afar was clearly gunfire.

“How many shots were that? I couldn’t hear properly because of the echo.”

It was clear that Crowley and Prea had started fighting Leeha. How many shots had been fired? Were there no special skill effects sounds?

Chiyou listened briefly, but she couldn’t hear any more sounds. Thinking that the battle was still ongoing, she only quickened her pace.

“Crowley, what happened? What about Leeha? Who else was there?”

“Prea! Report the results.”

Chiyou’s eyes widened for a moment. She bit her lip and quickened her pace even more.

The words felt hollow. The fact that both of them had “logged out.”

“No way. This quickly? Not even 5 minutes— Who came with them? Dragon? No! To face Bluebeard, there must be at least a few more people outside?!”

Through the report of the deceased Yamato members, Chiyou roughly grasped the group below.

Leeha, the dragon turned human, Ram Hwajung. And another person whose identity was unknown.

Even if the four of them made it safely to the vicinity of the castle, didn’t Bluebeard show up?

At least two people must have sacrificed themselves to buy time from Bluebeard. Maybe even three.

Then did Leeha single-handedly defeat Crowly and Prea so quickly… Oh! That, that’s right, didn’t Le mention that he couldn’t enter this place?”


The quest description clearly stated that. Bluebeard said, ‘he cannot enter this place.’

So did all four of them recklessly rush into this place, ignoring Bluebeard?

“If that’s the case, it’s the worst. I need to hurry.”

Chiyou’s heart raced. But time was on Chiyou’s side.

One floor, another floor. And another one. What blocked the open staircase so far was a bright red door.

“Alright!”

She immediately opened the door.

Creak…….

Listening to the creak of the caught latch, Chiyou held out her mini lantern.

What she saw in her eyes was still the same dark room. But the difference now was at the far end of her sight, there was a chair and a mirror.

“Are you here?”

There was a woman sitting with her legs crossed on the chair. Although she seemed to be speaking to Chiyou, her eyes were fixed on the mirror. In the mirror, images of the inside of Bransylvania Castle were reflecting, showing everything happening outside.

“Bathory…nim?”

Upon hearing Chiyou’s feeble voice, the woman stood up. She was wearing a garment that could not be distinguished as underwear or outerwear, with a transparent skin so fair that it could be described as almost luminous. Clack, clack, clack. She walked towards Chiyou.

“Perhaps the light is unnecessary.”

The woman’s face, frowning as if the light from the mini lantern was disturbing her, caught Chiyou’s gaze. Next to her lips was a charming mole, and her slightly drooping eyes had long eyelashes.

“Of course”, Chiyou turned off the lantern and put it in the bag. As all light disappeared, Chiyou could no longer sense the woman’s presence. There was no lack of anxiety. Chiyou swiftly employed his skills: the social dance that could predict attacks, and the whisper of waves that could sense vibrations in the surroundings like a bat’s ultrasonic waves. Given Bathory’s cautious nature, it was only natural for her to attempt to discern her intentions. How could this be? Yet Chiyou felt nothing. Despite hearing Bathory’s footsteps, pinpointing her location was difficult.

“I see the ramparts… What did you bring? Who is this coming up now?”

The voices echoed from all directions. In the pitch darkness, Chiyou could not fathom which direction to turn to respond.

“The Count requests your presence, Bathory-nim. Though Ghibrid has awoken, the current situation does not permit his involvement, so he seeks to borrow your power.”


I would not be told such a thing…

“Here, this is directly from the Count.”

Chiyou remained composed, presenting his own matter and slowly pulling out the letter handed by Bluebeard. Though he thought he extended it in any direction, in a flash, the letter vanished from Chiyou’s hand.

“Fine. At least one of the failure conditions is overcome.”

If that letter, Bluebeard’s Call, were to disappear, Chiyou’s quest would automatically fail. However, now that the item had passed into Bathory’s hands, the probability of that happening had vanished, Chiyou concluded. Hmm. Along with a rustling sound, Bathory’s indistinct mutter was audible. With an excited heart, Chiyou organized various information in his mind. He did not know what the content implied, not even Chiyou himself. However, the success condition of the quest was convincing Bathory.

“They say she’s fearsome, so it won’t be easy. But that’s what makes it fun, right?”

Chiyou was also known among users as a cunning strategist. Bathory had the confidence to persuade her, no matter how she reacted, and lead her in front of Bluebeard.

“If you’re curious about the current situation, feel free to ask me anything”, Chiyou said, confidently speaking first.

However, the next question from Bathory was completely unexpected even to her. Do you like Le?

Chiyou mulled over the question from various angles.

‘What’s the intention behind it? What’s the meaning of that?’

Who is this Bathory? What were the expressions that Bluebeard used about Bathory?

But she couldn’t come up with an answer in that short time. She was also a master of sophistry. She knew that if a question couldn’t be answered, it was best not to answer it.

“Would I dare to pass judgment on the Count in terms of good or bad?”

Indeed… So that’s why you were sent first.

Feeling Bathory’s voice somewhat weakening, Chiyou felt relieved.

‘Choosing this approach is indeed the safest. Surprisingly, there seems to be no animosity towards Bluebeard, so persuading should be easy—’

Clang!

“Yes.”

At that moment, a clanging sound rang out.


Contrary to Bathory’s demeanor, Chiyou sensed it clearly coming from a specific direction. When Chiyou turned her head towards the direction of the sound, a loud roar and rough banging accompanied it.

“Chiyou!”

“Hiyah!”

Tzaaah

Chiyou could see Leeha’s face clearly.

It was because amidst the perfect symmetry, there was a single glimmer of light.

“… A cute boy.”

Bathory was right next to Chiyou. Chiyou wasn’t surprised that she couldn’t read Bathory’s intentions. The light Leeha was holding was moving very subtly.

“I don’t know who they are, but let’s take them down together!”

Leeha hurled the fire and immediately shut the door. The moving flames followed a small line. The flame of the fuse being gradually extinguished. In Leeha’s hand were bombs made at some point.

“This is an in-” — As soon as he opened the door, Leeha was filled with regret. But more than anything, I was doubting my own eyes.

Thoughts raced through my mind at an incredible speed.

“What in the world is that?”

Meeting Prea and confirming that there were no abnormalities here, it was a relief to have retrieved the Bifrost Potion.

Reaching the top floor triumphantly and igniting the bomb was also a good move indeed.

However, as he opened the door and hurled the bomb, the moment the flames illuminated the painting on the scroll, he couldn’t help but wonder what had happened.

“Wait, the gaping mouth— it looks like it’s aiming for Chiyou’s neck?”

Chiyou, startled by seeing me, and the ‘woman’ behind him, had her mouth wide open. The sharp fangs seemed poised to sink into Chiyou’s neck at any moment.

“Chiyou and an enemy? No, that can’t be right! Chiyou came all the way here to awaken ‘that’, right?”

Above all, the atmosphere between the two wasn’t hostile. The expression on Chiyou’s face as he looked at me, and the one on the woman standing behind Chiyou, didn’t indicate an intention to fight each other.

What if I had opened the door just a little later?

Chiyou’s expression showed confusion about the situation he was in. Chiyou didn’t seem to be fighting ‘that’, rather just being hunted, or…?

*Grrrooowwwwl…!

“It was prey. That was just a meal!”

By the time the explosion occurred inside, I could somewhat guess the identity of the other woman inside. The woman who was trying to sink her teeth into Chiyou’s neck. And the pallid skin. The movement to ‘eat’ Chiyou.

Several words swirled in my head: fangs, neck, vampire.

Blood.

“Blood Maiden! Bathory!!”

A cold shiver ran down his spine.

Surely, Chiyou had come here because of Bluebeard’s orders. But did he even know what role she was supposed to play here?

“Did he promise something in return? Even if he did, did she volunteer as prey, disregarding other sacrificial lambs, only because she asked for it? Did that woman go to such lengths? Even if she’s a Ranker, would he give up his life so easily?”

In a game, depending on what you might gain, you might sacrifice yourself once. If the conditions are exceptionally great. But that woman is Chiyou.

Considering the woman’s usual behavior, aah…

“She wouldn’t willingly give up her life because Bluebeard commanded it!”

In other words, Chiyou didn’t even know that he had been sent here as ‘prey’ by Bluebeard.

“What the hell is going on?! 『Mana Clairvoyance』! I don’t have time to think about whatever this is anymore.”

When the heat and smoke had settled enough, Leeha swiftly opened the door and pulled the handle. Click!

As soon as one foot loaded heavily, Leeha aimed the crossbow, but the sight distorted completely by the magic used.

“What, what is this?”

Zhiing-!

What Leeha saw was the room filled with mana energy. It wasn’t an illusion caused by the heat of the explosion.

“Hyaaaah-!”

“Kryuk, Jellypong! Watch out!”

『Myoong!』

In an instant, Chiyou, rushing towards him, became clearly visible.

Although Leeha was unable to react, Jellypong pushed Leeha’s body with its tentacles to forcibly move him.

“I can see Chiyou clearly. But where is Bathory who was there just now? It’s not like she exploded. What happened? What’s going on?”

Did Bathory embrace the bomb, absorb the explosion, and die, causing Chiyou to retreat? However, there were no achievements to be seen. It was a dim room, but there was no sign of a lightened corpse.

At that moment, the mana energy filling the room gathered together.

“Umm, he was not a cute boy but rather a bothersome one.”

Leeha quickly recognized the figure taking a human form. Vampire mist form, it was a kind of skill.

“Hah, 『Mana Vaporizing Shot』!”

A monster of an unfamiliar form using an unfamiliar skill had to be stopped. In a situation where an attack was imminent, Leeha immediately fired the bullet towards the ground.

The space was not very wide. Moreover, Chiyou and the presumed Bathory monster were relatively close.

“Within a radius of 30 from the impact point!”

As Leeha organized his thoughts, Bathory had already disappeared.

While focusing on Bathory, Chiyou attacked.

“What are you trying to do, argh.”

Chiyou’s attack was blocked by Jellypong’s tentacles.

“That darn tentacle item. Drop it and let me snatch it.”

“It’s not the time to blabber about that. Bathory disappeared.”

Despite Leeha’s provocation, Chiyou didn’t bat an eyelid. There was no clue from her expression to confirm that the monster present was Bathory.

“Damn it, I don’t want to fight with a smart person! 『Gunblade Assault』!”

Hwiik-! Along with using the skill, Leeha nearly unleashed the Black Bass. Of course, Chiyou wouldn’t get hit by such an attack. The mana blade gathered emitted a faint blue light, restoring some brightness to the interior of the room.

“Jellypong! 『Battle Mode: Agility』! Kill Chiyou!” 『Myoong!』

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

So Chiyoyu was supposed to be food.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 736

				
Arcane Sniper 736

Although Bathory’s figure was not visible, after all, the purpose isn’t her.

Leeha’s only goal is one thing – to prevent Chiyou from wielding her strength!

In that case, shouldn’t we handle Chiyou first?

“Wait!”

Chiyou couldn’t hide the surprise in her eyes.

“Chiyou! You can’t read Jellypong’s attacks now, can you?”

Following Jellypong’s tentacle attack, Leeha’s Mana Bayonet plunged into the space.

Chiyou twisted her body, biting her lip.

The Mana Vaporizing Shot did not cancel the currently used skill, but it rendered skills connected to it unusable. Moreover, skills that required continuous use of mana became completely useless once the mana hit zero.

In other words, as expected by Leeha, all of Chiyou’s various ‘dances’ were deactivated. Yes, right… 『That girl who shot that bullet, it was 20 years ago.』

“Huh? Where did she come from-”

Leeha was startled and swung Black Bass behind her.

Woosh, a sound echoed as light illuminated the space, but there was nothing in the spot where the voice seemed to have come from. Meanwhile, Jellypong and Chiyou were engaged in a fierce battle.

Each strike was powerful, and Jellypong boasted a merciless force with its fifteen tentacles, but it couldn’t overpower Chiyou.

Chiyou managed to evade all of Jellypong’s attacks merely with pure movements and even successfully counterattacked by bending Jellypong’s surface.

『Mana Vaporizing Shot, right? I remember you couldn’t use it consecutively.』 Leeha quickly fired a bullet towards the spot where the sound originated.

However, despite the explosion and the light illuminating the space as the bullet hit the wall, Bathory’s figure was nowhere to be seen.

‘She knows the skill too? No, no. If she had faced Elizabeth…then she might know.’

Leeha pondered. How should he kill the monster that turned into mist?


The answer was right in front of him. Leeha rummaged through his bag quickly.

“Let’s give it a try! How long are you going to hesitate like that!”

With Black Bass slung over his shoulder, Leeha took out a stick with a hose attached to it. 『What’s that…?』

Bathory’s voice trembled slightly at first. It was an item that even she had never seen before, but did it instinctively make Bathory anxious? On the contrary, it fueled Leeha with energy.

“We can’t just block the mist with something as light as this stick!”

Leeha pulled the trigger attached to the stick. Thud—clank—!

When the switch rose from the small pouch connected to the hose, the tip of the lower rod snapped.

Fwhoaaa—shhh—kk!

Flamethrower utilizing Blaugrunn’s scales!

The weapon that had been used to burn Chimeras to a crisp in the past once again shone brightly.

“W-what’s this—”

As soon as the flames burst forth, Chiyou immediately leaped out of the way.

The attack was an unavoidable one, with a tremendous range of 700, making it impossible for Chiyou to dodge, yet even then, Leeha couldn’t bring himself to aim the nozzle towards Chiyou.

“Jellypong, come back!”

『Myong, myong?』

Chiyou’s movement direction was right behind Jellypong. Furthermore, with the flames burning too fiercely, Jellypong couldn’t even approach Leeha, who had to consider the possibility of accidentally setting fire to Jellypong amidst the chaotic situation.

‘Damn it, now that it’s come to this— Leeha indiscriminately sprayed flames into the relatively confined indoor areas.’

Whether the flames were directly hitting Bathory, whether they were dealing damage properly—those weren’t concerns at the moment. Since causing damage over a wide area was imperative, the interior was quickly engulfed in flames.

With the crackling of flames mixing with screams, it was clear that the attack was effective.

“Excellent! 3,000 damage per second! It might only last a hundred seconds, but just hitting for a few tens of seconds is enough!”


Leeha felt like his heart was about to burst with excitement.

The screams were an indicator that the attack was making an impact! Although unintentional, the flamethrower was undoubtedly one of the best choices.

While the mist transformation effect could evade nearly all physical attacks and many magical attacks, it was evidently vulnerable to attacks that engulfed the entire area or precluded evasion.

“Just because he’s a cute guy, I tried to go easy on him but nooo—”

Fwooosh!

The figure of a woman engulfed in flames leaped out from behind Leeha.

Just by revealing herself, it was clear how much damage she had taken. Exposed to more flames, she would soon feel the threat to her life.

Eeeek—!

As the flames spewed from the flamethrower, igniting various parts of the wall, the indoor space was now brightly lit up, allowing Leeha to see Bathory and sense her presence.

The issue was how incredibly fast she moved.

Despite being able to see and sense her, finding a way to stop her was proving difficult. He couldn’t turn the muzzle of the flamethrower, nor could he manage to raise the Black Vase and shoot it.

Hearing Bathory’s shout, he eventually threw the flamethrower towards Leeha and turned his body at the same time. Before he knew it, Bathory was charging towards him, aiming for his neck and heart. Her nails were larger and sharper than those of the fangs.

“I will drink your delicious blood!”

A crimson fingernail, stretched out from her pale hand, targeting Leeha’s eyes.

“I must dodge, no matter what. If I can just avoid the vital points, I can turn the tide.”

Leeha did his best to focus and twisted his body.

Meanwhile, Bathory’s hands were still moving.

*Swish*…!

“Eeeek!”

The sound of flesh being torn apart and screams almost rang out at the same time.


Blood was dripping from the end of Bathory’s nails. Although Leeha barely managed to dodge by the narrowest margin, his health bar filled up to 100% before was now left with only 30% in no time.

However, her attacks were merely ‘brushing past’.

Then where did the sound of flesh being torn come from?

“B-Bathory!”

Chiyou’s eyes widened as if they were about to pop out. Leeha could barely smile upon hearing her outcry.

“So, you were Bathory after all! How about my attack? Or rather, the attack of a comrade who was quite close to you… Is it worth tasting?”

Leeha’s left hand was attached to Bathory’s chest.

More precisely, what Leeha was holding onto was the ‘handle of a dagger’. The blade of the dagger, in fact, Toon’s claw, had completely penetrated Bathory’s chest.

“Grrr-…”

Leeha pulled out Toon’s claw dagger and stabbed it again.

*Swish*!

The horrifying sensation of flesh being pierced was transmitted to his fingertips, but in his excitement, Leeha did not notice that detail.

One thing only!

“I must kill Bathory right here and now!”

That thought was the only thing in Leeha’s mind.

Toon was one of the three pillars of Bluebeard. If he recalled the suffering of all the users in Middle Earth because of this one Toon, what would happen if Bathory, the second in command of Bluebeard, were to be released into the world?

“Aaargh!”

Leeha did not stop swinging Toon’s claw dagger.

He stabbed, stabbed, stabbed, and stabbed again. Exposed to the attacks of the flamethrower, Toon’s claws, which were granted immense agility, shredded Bathory’s body repeatedly.

“Ba, Bathory-nim! Ha Leeee-haaaa!”

“Jellypong!”

『Myongmyong!』

Chiyou finally came to her senses and dashed towards Leeha, but Jellypong was not standing still either. Jellypong blocked her path, and Bathory was frozen in place!

Leeha quickly pulled out Black Bass, took three steps back, and raised the rifle.

“Don’t move, Chiyou! I’ll shoot if you do!”

Chiyou on the left, Bathory on the right. Chiyou could be shot the moment she moved. But what about Bathory?

It would be difficult to subdue her with the level of attacks so far if she was at least Toon-grade.

Leeha threw a threatening glance at Chiyou and turned the rifle towards Bathory. Just as Chiyou was about to speak, Leeha’s finger moved.

-ㅡ |

The bullet hit Bathory’s heart and slammed into the wall. The smoke emanating from Bathory’s chest wasn’t blood but black smoke, a familiar form. Kaztor? … Vitality Jar? Leeha knew. Bathory wouldn’t die.

‘Too easy of a thought. Damn it! She’s the second in command of Bluebeard, stupid! Where is she—Where the hell is she?’

Leeha looked around. But if it was Vitality Jar… searching like this was impossible.

Wasn’t that like moving the source of life itself? The chance of Bathory’s body and that being in the same place was unlikely. So, moving was necessary, but Leeha’s thoughts didn’t go that far. And that moment was the last chance for Chiyou.

“Bathory can’t die. It must not happen!”

Chiyou’s quest success condition is to persuade Bathory. The failure conditions are if Chiyou dies inside the Bransylvania Castle and Bluebeard’s Call item is lost — just two cases.

In other words, Bathory’s death doesn’t directly lead to quest failure!

“But logically speaking, once Bathory dies, this quest disappears. It’s not about success or failure but automatic annihilation!”

What then is the best course of action for Chiyou to take?

Chiyou assessed Bathory’s condition. Black Bass’s bullet holes and the rising black smoke from the impacts were visible. The severity of the fatal injury was evident even at a glance.

“Damn it, am I dying? No, dying is fine! But even if I die, she must express her agreement and then die”, Bathory emphasized. In that moment, it would be like achieving the ‘quest success condition.’

However, due to Jellypong in front, Chiyou couldn’t approach Bathory.

Chiyou: Bathory!

Chiyou called out, looking at Bathory.

It was a silent movement, but Bathory knew how to read even that. And she responded, Bathory: Save me… help me. I’m running out of blood. I can’t run out of blood. When will the sun set?

Chiyou: The sun? Ah, there’s still about an hour until sunset. But… about the blood? How can I supply it to you?

Bathory’s lips were gradually drying out. Even though it wasn’t the injured area, parts of her body were withering and drying up, falling apart into the air.

Bathory: I can’t use any strength, quickly, quickly, the blood- if it’s delayed further, recovery will become difficult.

Chiyou: So, how do we get the blood? Are you asking for my blood?

Through the telepathic conversation, the two could communicate sufficiently. Although Bathory didn’t nod in response to Chiyou’s question, Chiyou understood.

Bathory’s expression was desperate yet strangely resigned. And from observing how the other Blue Whiskers found strength, Chiyou put the pieces together easily.

‘Toon was fully revived by Bluebeard’ power… So, maybe Bathory isn’t completely revived yet?’

Was Bathory seeking strength not through Bluebeard but by consuming blood? Or did she mean to consume blood first, then seek strength from Bluebeard? Whatever it was, one thing was certain- when Chiyou arrived at this place, she was the only one from whom Bathory could drink blood.

Who should Bathory drink blood from?

“Bluebeard… that bastard?”

Chiyou’s mind grasped the idea that Bluebeard intended to use her as a sacrifice. That must be the ‘persuasion of Bathory’ that Bluebeard mentioned before!

“Were they planning to sacrifice me to gain points from Bathory, recover her strength to some extent, then pull her to his side and proceed with his plan?”

Chiyou shuddered. It seemed like Le was trying to use her as a ‘disposable pawn’ instead of ‘sacrificing’ her!

Bathory observed Chiyou as her expression changed rapidly. The dry lips of the Blood Maiden trembled.

“Quickly, the blood- quickly! If it’s delayed further, my body will collapse. Once that happens, even with blood, it’ll be useless! When the sun sets, the creatures will awaken, and I won’t be able to control them anymore!”

“Creatures?”

“You! Didn’t you say that Le sent you!?”

Bathory’s expression became more direct and intense.

Chiyou realized the urgency of the situation. But how could she persuade her?

A vampire who only seemed intent on devouring her! (To be continued…)
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To persuade her, Chiyou had to offer her own body. Given the situation, this was not even up for consideration. But Chiyou was focused on something else. Them. The sun was setting.

“The nature of vampires makes them stronger after the sun sets. Maybe that’s why there are no windows. But ‘them’? The sun sets, and they awaken? Uncontrollable? That means there’s another being somewhere in the castle…”

At that moment, Chiyou realized. Watching her pupils dilate, Bathory urgently moved her lips.

“Quickly, please. Share your blood. Yes, share my power. Don’t you want to become the strongest second-in-command under the Vampire Queen? I’ll make it so that you can revel in your glory in all the dark castles around the world.”

Tuka-ah-ah…!

Chiyou and Bathory were both startled by the sudden sound of gunshots.

“This is not right. Damn it, damn it.”

Leeha was still searching for Vitality Jar.

After glancing at Leeha, Bathory took a step towards Chiyou. It was a subtle and delicate movement that Leeha, who was only looking at Chiyou, could not detect.

“Can you share your power?”

“Of course. I can even make you my consort. But we must hurry, or I may not be able to consume blood anymore.”

“How do you share your power?”

“Come here and present your neck! It’s the opposite of sucking blood! I have to inject my blood into you!”

Chiyou was the leader of the Shinobi Gumi. Hence, she was not lacking in bargaining power compared to Ram Hwayeon. She knew well who held the upper hand at the moment and did not completely push Bathory away.

“Is it possible to receive blood without sucking blood?”

“It’s possible but pointless. If I don’t regain my strength, I won’t have much power to share. So, quickly—quickly, offer your neck.”

Chiyou pondered how to overcome the current situation or what the best choice for her would be.

The moment one thought divided into eighteen more was fleeting, and even as those eighteen thoughts split into another eighteen each, she did not miss a single thread.

In an instant, a mind map sprang forth in her mind.


“Alright. But promise me. Promise that you will work for Bluebeard.”

“I will. But now, I think I know why Le sent you.”

Bathory’s skin seemed to be glowing noticeably.

Leeha was still searching for Vitality Jar, trying to press the wall stones or hitting the floor with the Black Bass’ muzzle, searching for any place where Vitality Jar might be hiding.

Had Chiyou looked at Bathory, known that she was undergoing natural decay, she wouldn’t have engaged in searching for Vitality Jar. Chiyou smiled.

“It seems like you weren’t simply sent here to be a blood bag. Huh.”

“Yeah! So hurry! From the moment you drink my blood, you have to use your power for Le again. Quickly, time is now-”

“Alright. But you have to make some noise. We need to grab the attention of that slime-like creatures. One, two-”

Chiyou’s muscles twitched subtly.

“…

-three.”

Bathory let out a scream as she immediately assumed a pose to dash away upon the countdown.

“Argh-!”

Bathory screamed in agony. At that moment, the gazes of Leeha and Jellypong turned towards her.

“Quick! Quickly put your mouth on my neck!”

“Kahak- come here!”

In that moment, Chiyou lunged towards Bathory, dodging Jellypong. Bathory’s jaw dropped. Leeha’s eyes widened briefly, but that was all. He was only momentarily surprised by the scene he had just witnessed upon opening the door.

“Stop, Chiyou!”

Leeha raised his black rifle. Chiyou did not stop. Leeha was not foolish enough to only threaten with words. He immediately pulled the trigger.

“Too late! Hah!”


Bang! As Bathory’s teeth sank into Chiyou’s neck, Leeha’s bullet left the rifle. In that moment, Chiyou was smiling. How long had it been since she first fired the Mana Vaporizing Shot? She already saw the ‘semi-transparent bullet’ hitting her abdomen. Her waist moved like flowing water, foreseeing the attack through the 『Dance of Society』.

–! Even as the echoes of gunshots faded in the narrow room, Leeha still failed to fully comprehend the situation.

“Kahaha- Kahat- Kahaa…~』 “What… what’s happening-?”

A hole opened up in Bathory’s abdomen, completely penetrating her internal organs. With her neck bitten by Bathory, Chiyou smiled.

“Quickly inject it, you damn blood-sucking bitch.”

“Kaaaah- you- youuu- this- kahaaargh!”

As soon as Bathory’s fangs pierced Chiyou, Chiyou’s quest succeeded. And the subsequent bullets completely depleted Bathory’s remaining health. Her body would crumble to the point where she couldn’t even perform bloodsucking anymore.

What did that moment signify?

In a situation where bloodsucking became impossible and only blood transfusion was possible!

Vampires have an instinct to protect their kind. Chiyou deduced this through her conversation with Bathory.

“If divided, it might not be much, but if everything is given, shouldn’t it be sufficient?”

“Bitch, kaahhh!”

Bathory raged, but her body gradually crumbled into dust.

Through the fangs stuck in Chiyou’s neck, Bathory’s power flowed sequentially without stopping.

“Wait a minute! Chiyou! What are you doing!? If you don’t back off now— Aaahhh- 『Platinum Shield』!”

With an explosion, the pinnacle bug of Bransylvania Castle burst out.

Even as her body was completely upended and blown away, Leeha watched something emerge from Chiyou’s back.

It was Chiyou’s 『2nd job advancement』, something beyond Leeha’s wildest dreams.

“Oh, ohoho, is it over?”

Bluebeard chuckled as he watched the explosion of Bransylvania Castle. With the explosion, the relentless blizzard ceased. No more snowballs came flying. However, regardless of that, Bluebeard’s expression still exuded calmness.


“Haah, haah… Blaugrunn, you okay?”

“Okay- cough, super.”

Blaugrunn’s upper body was drenched in blood.

Arzenmacht was freezing and hemostatizing the wounded area, but that alone was not enough for complete recovery.

『Ice Spear』.”

As Ram Hwajung shot out an ice spear, Bluebeard took off his hat.

“I will enjoy the meal, little lady.”

Just by aligning the hole in his hat with the tip of the ice spear, the ice spear vanished into the hat.

Ram Hwajung’s magic was nullified like that of a third-rate mage.

“Eurgh-!”

Bluebeard thumped his belly as if he had ingested it, pretending to digest it.

Bluebeard was strong enough to be mistaken for an Ancient, but Arzenmacht was still an Adult Silver Dragon nearing its final stage.

And although nearing the Adult-class, Blaugrunn, the Bronze Dragon, was still at the Juvenile-class. The 4:1 battle with the Ranker Ice Mage Ram Hwajung and Leeha’s soulmate Koma didn’t go as urgently as expected. Especially after Koma was torn to pieces by Bluebeard and returned to the spirit realm, the remaining three had to desperately defend against the onslaught of Bluebeard.

“Such a pity, Chiyou. But at least in the end, she might serve as nourishment for Bathory, so maybe it’s a bit of good fortune.”

“The Blood Maiden is here…”

“What? You didn’t even know that and came this far? Geez, Silver Dragon’s brain seems to have completely rotted!”

Amidst Bluebeard’s chuckling, something began to stir in the exploding Bransylvania Castle. As the shadow drew closer, Bluebeard’s expression suddenly changed. Arzenmacht and Blaugrunn, even Ram Hwajung, couldn’t help but be surprised by what they saw on Bluebeard’s face.

“Ch-Chiyou? How did you…”

The figure descending while exuding aura was Chiyou. With a completely different attire and appearance from when she ascended to the castle, the most striking feature was the wings of bloody membranes on her back.

“So, was that the reason you sent me, Count?”

“T-That’s not it… Wait, what about Bathory? What happened to Bathory?”

Even Bluebeard looked astonished by the current situation. Not predicting what happened inside Bransylvania Castle, which housed a Demon King’s Fragment grade boss, was evidence of the unexpected turn of events.

“Chiyou! Blaugrunn, stop them! Bind them somehow! 『Hallucination: Bahamut』!”

Before the echoes of the voice faded, the apparition of a Platinum Dragon materialized near the summit.

“Ugh, this is getting annoying.”

“You’re not referring to me when you say that, right?”

Chiyou’s lips curved up slightly. Bluebeard regained his composure soon after.

“That couldn’t be. I’m just relieved that you look better than I expected. Shall we return for now?”

As Chiyou listened to Bluebeard, she glanced over her shoulder.

Even without checking various alerts or system windows, she knew. She knew what she had become and how she had changed. Despite wanting to test it immediately, Chiyou, as a gambler, had no intention of taking any risks.

Not knowing how penalties would be applied, she had no desire to gamble at this point.

“Yes, let’s go.”

Chiyou linked arms with Bluebeard.

Swoosh! The two beings jumped and flew over the mountain crest as if gliding.

“B-Blaugrunn, arzenmacht, stop, Chiyou!”

Before the gunfire rang out, Chiyou had already turned around. Her movements in avoiding the projectiles were impeccable. An ordinary person would have been paralyzed, unsure of what had happened, what transpired in the castle, and what they should do next. But Leeha was different. With the rifle in hand and the target in sight, there was only one thing for the sniper to do.

“Whew, whew. Eagle’s Eye.”

Adjusting his breathing, he approached the edge of the cliff. A single wrong step would have been enough to make him fall, but right now, that danger didn’t even register.

“Haa, haa. Distance – 270 meters, moving away rapidly but direction remains stable.”

Whew. No, she will definitely evade the attack, anticipating it in advance. How can he anticipate it? How can he deceive the enemy? Can he use a diversion to catch the person off guard? If he had truly intended to kill Chiyou, he should have aimed at her with a flamethrower from the beginning. Even if there were consequences of killing Jellypong along with her, that should have been how he ended it. Leeha shook his head.

‘Don’t dwell on the past. In order to shake off that sorrow… Ahhhhh.’

“One shot is all it takes, Chiyou.”

He watched Chiyou and Bluebeard becoming smaller and smaller in the distance, then lowered the rifle that had been aimed at them.

『Terror Familiar: Target』 Something gushed out from Leeha’s chest. Leeha’s eyes were on it, but his hands were not. In that instant when a scream was heard in the distance, Chiyou’s body slumped down. The altitude dropped abruptly along with Bluebeard who had been holding onto Chiyou.

“Die.”

Right there was the spot he had set his sights on. Baaaang… Bluebeard moved without letting go of Chiyou. Whether Chiyou turned a milky white because of the blue feathers and Bluebeard’s body obscuring him, Leeha couldn’t see. But in his mind, a cheerful fanfare was ringing.

“Oppa.”

Ram Hwajung approached, unable to take her eyes off the spectacle unfolding before her. She held onto the hunched figure of the sniper tightly, her hands trembling.

“Damn it… If only I didn’t know about the Vitality Jar, I could have killed Bathory. Before Bathory’s power was transferred to Chiyou, I could have completely eradicated her existence.”

“No, that’s just an excuse. Although the bullet seems to have hit, what will happen next?”. He slowly released her shooting stance. All battles that took place in the Eternal Snow Mountains of the Northern Eastern Continent had come to an end. (To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Damn, Chiyou getting her second job, although she died, she would come back stronger.
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『Acquired the achievement “Bluebeard’s Great Ire”.』

『Because it is a duplicate achievement, the effect will not apply.』

『Acquired the achievement “Discovering the Everlasting Bloodline”.』

『Acquired the achievement “Insulting the Pride of the Blood Maiden”.』

『Acquired the achievement “Nightmare of the Setting Sun”.』

“Did I just obtain four achievements in one go—oh, and on top of that, the achievement with Bluebeard’s Great Ire overlapped?”

Leeha’s eyes widened. At the same time, Leeha could roughly grasp the situation from a while ago.

The sudden explosion-like disappearance of Bathory’s body and the significant change in Chiyou’s appearance.

Above all, despite killing ‘Chiyou’, only achievements related to ‘Bathory’ were appearing.

“I didn’t get the Ranker Hunting achievement. I thought I killed Chiyou for sure. She didn’t turn into light, but the bullet hit her body. So, if she’s dead, doesn’t that mean the achievement should show up?”

“Why isn’t the Ranker Hunting achievement popping up? Is she dead or not?”

What does that mean? At this point, Leeha couldn’t know for sure. The only certainty was that he had obtained clues on what had happened to Chiyou and Bathory. 『Achievement: Discovering the Everlasting Bloodline(S-)』

Congratulations! You have discovered a bloodline that shares blood and confirmed their existence! Referred to as vampires or blood ghouls, they sustain their power and life by absorbing the blood of other species and distributing it among their kind. Despite appearing as intelligent beings with magical abilities, they, too, could not escape the fairness of fate. With the exception of one individual at the top of the bloodline hierarchy, all vampires cannot move when the sun is up. Even for the advancement of archaeology and human knowledge, you must seize the moment when the sun is up. Be cautious! The moment the sun sets, they will see you only as prey! Reward: 18 Star Points

Additional 10% damage dealt when hit by a vampire

Additional 5% damage when attacking a vampire

You are the second registrant of the achievement “Discovering the Everlasting Bloodline.”

The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the existing effect will be applied an additional 200%. Effect: 36 Stat Points

Additional 20% damage dealt when hit by a vampire

Additional 10% damage when attacking a vampire


Leeha vividly remembered the moment when Bathory bit Chiyou’s neck.

“So, I thought it was a vampire.”

It’s not bloodsucking but blood-giving. Turning bloodsucking into blood-giving, guided by Chiyou, the conversation was too difficult for Leeha to comprehend clearly due to the venomous needle.

“They sustain their power and life by distributing blood…”

If so? Could it be that Chiyou herself transformed into a vampire?

That would be a more favorable outcome to consider.

“In the worst case scenario…”

Leeha’s jaw trembled. However, the “worst-case scenario” was entirely within the realm of possibility.

“It’s not just within the realm of possibilities.”

With Bathory’s disappearance, now it seemed even more likely to lean towards the “worst-case scenario.”

“Did Chiyou become Bathory? No, it’s not that Chiyou’s existence disappeared, but rather… I feel like she inherited Bathory’s power.”

In that case, in Chiyou’s case, she would have to be considered promoted to essentially the second-in-command of Bluebeard’s Army, a mid-level unit under the Demon King’s Army.

He lowered his head.

“Chiyou was trying to prevent Bathory from awakening. But what is this!? A more formidable enemy has emerged-”

“Ha Leeha.”

A voice that sounded as if it could dig into his palm with its fingernails woke him up as he was about to clench his fist.

“Ah! Blaugrunn, are you okay?”

Blaugrunn was leaning against Arzenmacht, wearing a robe stained with blood, barely standing.

“I’m fine.”

“Phew… I’m not okay, but if you’re fine, I guess that’s good.”


“And Leeha?”

Blaugrunn asked with a forced smile, looking at him.

A being who puts others first even in such difficult situations. He regained his composure as he looked at Blaugrunn. It wasn’t a time to lament over missed opportunities like thinking of the fish that got away.

“You seem to have enough energy to joke around. Thank goodness. I thought something was wrong.”

“If- cough, there was. I thought I had fully recovered the power from when I was an Adult-class… Seems like it’s still not enough for Le.”

Blaugrunn shivered as he looked in the direction where Le vanished. Leeeha could feel that it was driven by anger.

He wasn’t the only one feeling dejected.

“Was there a ‘Blood Maiden’ inside the fortress?”

“Yes.”

“What about her children?”

“What?!”

“Were there any children.”

Arzenmacht asked bluntly. He smirked as he saw Leeha hesitate for a moment.

“Children… Well, I can’t say for sure since we didn’t thoroughly search the interior. But if they were there, wouldn’t they have come out to fight?”

“There was no statue.”

“No…?”

Leeha’s expression stiffened as he spoke. Blaugrunn’s eyes widened.

“Oops! Ha Leeha-nim! The offspring of the vampire clan Bathory cannot move when the sun is up! Except for Bathory, the other vampires can-”

“Oppa, now.”

“-move only when the sun has set!”


Ram Hwajung pointed beyond the snowy mountains.

There was still a hint of sunset glow. However, the sun was no longer in the sky.

At that moment, Leeha understood everything as well.

The countless statues Leeha had seen on the way to Bathory, the highest-ranking vampire. What did that mean?

“Oh, damn it! That thing mentioned in the achievements-”

Except for the individual at the top of the vampire lineage, all vampires cannot move when the sun is up. That one line explained everything.

Chiyou, who ran away when the sun was up, was not an ordinary vampire.

It meant that she had become “it”, which represented the highest-ranking vampire, that was, Bathory!

And now that the sun has set, what will happen?

Leeha felt the impending explosion of the final moment. If there had been no explosion, there would have been only one main gate as an escape route.

In that case, they could have easily burned everything with flamethrowers.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Inside the castle-”

“I know! Ram Hwajung-ssi! Arzenmacht-nim! Don’t let them escape, we need to kill even one more! 『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”

Countless bats were flying above the top floor of the hole-ridden Bransylvania Castle.

Leeha frantically fired rounds of Multi-Warhead Shot towards the bats, followed by-

『Ice Age』.”

Ram Hwajung also successfully cast the spell quickly. At the same time, a huge presence emerged from behind.

Roarrrr!

In this place where there was no longer any interference of mana, there was no power to stop the dragons.

The imposing figures of a silver dragon and a bronze dragon caught their eyes, but by the time they thought about it, they were already soaring into the sky. A mass of white mana gathered in front of Arzenmacht-nim and a cluster of turquoise mana particles converged around Blaugrunn.

–

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

Leeha and Ram Hwajung couldn’t even look straight at it. In a moment, they had to close their eyes. The magnificent light that felt like it would pierce through their eyelids and touch their retinas soon disappeared. Though it was regrettable not to witness the moment when the silver dragon’s breath and the bronze dragon’s lightning magic intertwined, Leeha couldn’t muster such feelings.

“Where did all the bats go?”

“They’re all dead.”

A white steam emerged from Blaugrunn’s nose.

Hearing the tone that seemed to say, “What’s the big deal”, Leeha felt a renewed sense of determination.

“… Impressive. Ice. Breath.”

『Technically, it was just spraying a refrigerant in order to link to Blaugrunn’s mana.』

“Yeah, got it.”

Ram Hwajung also looked up at Arzenmacht with sparkling eyes. Leeha thought it was funny how the Silver Dragon seemed embarrassed.

Among the hundreds of vampires who attempted to escape from the Bransylvania Castle, only three survived.

“Um, are you really okay, Ram Hwajung-ssi?”

“Are you sure, arzenmacht?”

“The power is strong.”

‘Therefore, this action is necessary.’

With that additional reasoning, arzenmacht’s words were valid. Seeing the two people who even resembled each other in their conversational style, Leeha and Blaugrunn couldn’t help but look anxious.

After completing the search inside the Bransylvania Castle, they quickly descended from the mountains via dragon flight and were now preparing to part ways.

Just as Leeha was subtly trying to request for help and exchange information about Batorina vampires and Bluebeard, Ram Hwajung’s bombshell statement cut her off.

Me, really… cooperation? This isn’t even the concept of a ‘partner’, what is this? Although I had some hope of becoming partners…

Ram Hwajung had asked to learn from Arzenmacht and – whether that was the request or not, Leeha couldn’t tell – Arzenmacht had agreed under the condition of residing in his lair.

Leeha: What happens in that case? Shouldn’t she go to Bahamut and, you know, form another partnership?

Blaugrunn: I don’t know either. They say there were cases when dragons imparted teachings to humans long ago, but those are stories from over a hundred years ago.’

“It means no one has experienced it as a user.”

To witness something that had only been in the settings of Middle Earth, even amidst the absurdity, Leeha found comfort.

Ram Hwajung: Unni, it’s me.

“Oh, yeah. Please contact Ram Hwayeon. I will talk to her too.”

Ram Hwajung showed a bashful smile. For Leeha, witnessing such a smile from her was quite a heartwarming moment in reality.

“Arzenmacht, please take care.”

“No problem. Shall we go?”

Arzenmacht extended his hand towards Ram Hwajung.

Ram Hwajung took Arzenmacht’s hand with her delicate hand.

Ssshhhh—!

Watching the two figures vanish through teleportation, Leeha rubbed his chin thoughtfully.

“Oddly enough, they seem to fit well together. Like a father and daughter vibe.”

“Considering the human’s age is around mid-teens, so Arzenmacht may have a daughter around 490 years old”, Blaugrunn pondered.

“Speaking of which”, he continued, “Blaugrunn still has a long way to go, for real.”

“No, just kidding! I learned all this from Ha Leeha-nim!” Blaugrunn exclaimed as his hair was tousled by Leeha playfully.

Despite the exhausting battle they had just gone through, being able to laugh was a welcome relief.

“So, what are you going to do now? You need to report to the human’s Pope and-”

“Oh, right. I have to make arrangements to report to Kijung… and I have my own tasks to attend to as well.”

“Tasks?”

Leeha rummaged through his bag while glancing at Blaugrunn with a mischievous smile. After a moment, he pulled out a rolled-up parchment.

“A map?”

“Yes, but not your typical map.”

“Oh really?”

“It’s a map showing the house where Ha Hae-nim, a High-Hand who lived in Middle Earth, resided.”

“Ha Hae-nim? Ha Hae-nim had a house?”

“Haha, not me!”

“What do you mean?”

For Leeha, the real-life model of the White Reaper was undoubtedly Shimo Häyhä. However, a more familiar figure named ‘Hayha’ existed as a model within Middle Earth. According to records, the White Reaper must have already perished by the executioner’s blade.

However, he left behind a map. And a potion he created.

“If he had the same profession as in reality…”

Leeha trailed off, “The ‘White Reaper’ who killed 542 people in 100 days with 『whatever weapon』. It’s turning into a vampire just by itself, right?”

“Ahhh!”

“Why scream out of the blue like that?”

“I’m frustrated! When you’re frustrated, you gotta let it all out with a scream! You have to get stronger quickly!”

Leeha brandished his crystal ball, hitting Blaugrunn on the back enthusiastically.

“Let’s go, Blaugrunn! Off to Gaza City! Let’s gooooo!”

Blaugrunn looked utterly puzzled, unable to comprehend his partner’s mood.

“I invested in stamina to prepare for the White Plague, not anticipating this relentless drain on my hp. It was a waste to invest in stamina.”

Leeha muttered to himself as they headed towards the bottle-necked forge of Gaza City, reflecting on his recent battle.

Leeha assessed his battle before it began: was his decision rational, were there any deficiencies in his choices or actions during the fight? The first thing that came to mind was the issue related to stamina. What about the White Plague? A vicious state ailment that relentlessly drained 1% of one’s total stamina every minute, no matter how much stamina a person had.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Shimo Häyhä – often referred to by his nickname, the White Plague

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Simo_H%C3%A4yh%C3%A4
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He suddenly wondered what would have happened if he had completely swallowed that potion.

“Ugh, let’s not even think about experimenting with that. That would be insane.”

If he had swallowed it without spitting it out… at least one death would have been certain.

“Considering the achievements obtained this time, when totaled up– Character Window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human / Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 252 (4%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 151

Stat Points: 8,520 (5,964) HP: 3,210

Stats: Strength 675 (+590)

Agility 4000 (+1,382)

Intelligence 550 (+334)

Stamina 305 (+198)

Mind 200 (+150) Remaining Stat Points: 248

“About a hundred Stat Points, approximate– Huh? Two hundred? … Two hundred and forty-eight? What is this!”

Leeha, who had been moving with a determination not to waste even a second, had to stop in his tracks. With 248 Stat Points, which would have amounted to nearly 50 levels worth when converted straightforwardly, stacked up in the character window in one go.

“No bug issues, right. Wow… unbelievable.”

The achievement ‘Heir of the White Reaper’ and the three additional achievements he had gained by inflicting significant damage on Chiyou/Bathory were each providing immense stacked bonuses.

“Indeed… when you think about it, it’s obvious.”

“The discovery of the Everlasting Bloodline’ achievement was of S+ grade. But what about the other two achievements?”

Everything that confirmed Leeha as Chiyou=Bathory was all thanks to those achievements.


『Achievement: Insulting the Pride of the Blood Maiden (S-)』

May glory be upon you! You have dealt a fatal blow to ‘Bluebeard’s Deputy’, the ‘Blood Maiden’, leading the vampire kin. Although you did not bring her to death, in order to restore her life as the supreme being ruling as the leader of the vampire kin, Bluebeard’s Deputy had to consume a considerable amount of the blood she had gathered. If one wanted to increase their kin, they could increase their compatriots by hundreds, even thousands of quantities. Though now, like a wounded beast, she focuses solely on recovery, she remembers you. The one who dealt her a deadly blow as soon as she followed Bathory, she will seek out with all her might once she regains her all power. Reward: 21 Stat Points Conditional debuff ‘Resentment of the Blood Maiden’ acquired

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Insulting the Pride of the Blood Maiden』. Up to the third registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with an additional 200% application of existing effects. Effect: 42 Stat Points

“The ‘Blood Maiden’ is not just a title for Bathory… it refers to the leader of the vampire kin.”

And in that position, unmistakably stood Chiyou.

While Chiyou’s death could not strip her of the title of Blood Maiden, it had, at least, significantly depleted the power Bathory, the previous leader by a lot.

“Ugh, that’s not enough. Although receiving 63 Stat Points including entry into the Hall of Fame is amazing… a debuff! What’s more, its content–”

‘Resentment of the Blood Maiden’

Description: The leader of the vampire kin can trace the scent of blood touched by the injured pride. One will discover just how intense a woman’s rancor can be. Effect: Once a month, you must publicly reveal the location of one inflicted soul (skill use status undetectable) to Chiyou. If lucky, when she’s at a place like the Papacy of Eswelle, might be the right timing. However, if unlucky–during hunting, turning around could reveal a freshly reborn Chiyou smiling back at you.

Leeha shivered for a moment.

『Achievement: Nightmare of a Setting Sun (5-)』

Beware. You have earned the enmity of not only the ‘Blood Maiden’ but all kin who share the blood.

“Even now, they remember only the name Ha Leeha, and after the sun has set, they are still coming for you. Draining your blood is the only thing that pleases their queen. The moment they catch the scent of your blood, they will be drawn into the mad world of the moon. To prevent you from sleeping at night, all we can offer are small gifts.”

Reward: 21 Stat Points Alarm function when vampires are nearby vampire’s movement speed and attack speed +20% when fighting against vampires

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Nightmare of the Setting Sun』. Up to the third registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with an additional 200% application of existing effects. Effect: 42 Stat Points vampire’s movement speed and attack speed +40% when fighting against vampires

However, that was not the only problem. Once the leader of the vampires marked him, it was impossible for the subordinates below to leave Leeha alone.

“With this, I’m being chased by Igor’s Guild, pursued by the Midnight Circus in Petyr, and now also being pursued by Chiyou’s vampires… Man, seriously. Moreover, the effect is just an alarm, it’s like getting hit by a stick. They say the person gets faster. The mad world of the moon.”

Instead of increasing the movement and attack speed of the player in battles with vampires, does the movement and attack speed of the vampire increase instead?

“Giving a lot of points doesn’t necessarily mean it’s good… Hmm.”

A game that provides great rewards while eliminating the corresponding risks!


With a hesitant step, Leeha finally arrived at the Bottleneck’s Smithy.

“You guys-”

“You’re here! You made it! Lord, come in quickly, come in!”

“Why? What’s going on?”

Normally, when Bottleneck sees Leeha, who usually greets him as if asking what he’s come to find again, how will Leeha react from this welcome?

Leeha was led into the forge by the dwarf with swollen cheeks.

Setting aside all other matters, the only thing Bottleneck has been absorbed in recently was one thing. With this kind of reaction, then there was a high possibility that there was something important for Leeha himself.

“Do you have good news to share?”

“It’s still a theory… but I’ve finished negotiations with those damn monkeys.”

“Excuse me? What do you mean?”

As Leeha tilted his head in confusion, Bottleneck pointed to the table. There lay a rifle that resembled the 『Cobalt Blue Python』 in a way, but its color and shape were subtly different.

The ‘variation’ Cobalt Blue Python made by Koba.

After establishing the 『Partisan(빨치산)』 operation, Leeha had brought it to Bottleneck from Koba, and Bottleneck had been dismantling and studying it until now.

“Let me tell you the conclusion first.”

“Me.”

“I can make Black Bass stronger.”

“Strengthen? If that’s the case-”

“No, not strengthen.”

Bottleneck chuckled, rubbing his beard.

Although faced with an unpleasant smirk, Leeha did not turn away.”


Synthesis. I saw the possibility of synthesis.”

“Syn…thesis??

And effort (?) always came with a price. The words pouring out of Bottleneck’s mouth were a situation that didn’t care for Leeha.

“I don’t know if I should call it ‘synthesis’, or what to call it! That ‘derivative’ came from the original Cobalt Blue Python.”

“It came out?”

“Dammit! Don’t you even know the characteristics of your own rifle?”

“Why are you suddenly getting mad like that? If you say something out of the blue, I might not be able to understand.”

“That’s it! Listen carefully. What is the biggest feature of Black Bass, huh?”

“Uh, um… There’s the original musket form, but under certain conditions, it can be ‘evolved’ into a rifle tailored for specific users, right?”

“What was the explanation that came from there!”

“Explanation?”

I cautiously opened Black Bass’s item window. A single sentence in the detailed description caught my eye.

“This thing…is alive, right?”

“Exactly! That’s it! That dumb master artisan collected it from the Cobalt Blue Python and made that thing! It’s not just about copying the structure, but about creating it to mimic its characteristics! Do you understand what I’m saying?”

“Um, I think I get the gist of it by intuition.”

Leeha was completely clueless.

Even unable to properly understand such banter, Bottleneck continued, “So, I mentioned it! If separation occurs after collection, then is ‘synthesis’ of similar properties possible between them?!”

“So? Is it possible?”

“That is!”

And whoooooosh!

Bottleneck slammed the desk.

“I don’t know either.”

“Huh?”

“Curses, it’s frustrating that I can’t fully control that with my own power. If I had just one more test item, I would try it out. It’s a shame that I can’t handle it due to the level. It’s out of my league. I can’t even think about using a regular rifle. I need something at least on par with Black Bass, cobalt Blue Python, or Crimson Geckos. I can’t even create something like that myself.”

Bottleneck, who had just been excited like a young girl, suddenly transformed into a white-haired old man.

“Ah, it means impossible. No one among Leeha, Kidd, or Luger will dare to put their own items to the test. This is a challenge that not even Leeha can easily attempt. It’s not just a simple enhancement, it’s a synthesis. In other words, adding something to something implies that even if successful, they will be combined into one item.”

“My firearms are not up to the task. It’s obvious for those idiots.”

“Anyway!”

Bottleneck’s additional words were clearly a “hint”, and Leeha caught the hint perfectly. What was the grade of Bottleneck’s created item until now?

“Heroic grade! Right, Bottleneck is treated as a Dwarf Hero! And the firearms of the Three Musketeers are—”

Legendary grade.

If the story of the levels not matching was about this?

“Just find a Legendary grade rifle. If you can obtain one more Legendary grade rifle, you can try synthesizing it with Black Bass. As Leeha’s eyes widened with realization, Bottleneck looked at him with a mysterious gaze.

“Is there something bothering you?”

“Maybe there is, maybe not. Yes, maybe there is. I may not know what I want, but I have perfectly identified where to start searching!”

“Great! Then—”

“Oh, by the way. This, there is one Toon’s Bone remaining, maybe with this—”

Before Bottleneck could finish his sentence, Leeha handed him another task. It was the reason he had come here in the first place, so it was only natural. After assigning him a mission that bewildered Bottleneck, Leeha could finally leave the smithy. Even though it was midnight, he entered the lord’s office to complete the tasks that had piled up, confirmed that enough settlement funds had been accumulated, and was finally able to leave the castle grounds.

“Mom’s store is doing really well these days, so there shouldn’t be any immediate financial issues… Hehe, should I splurge on some items with the profit I made?”

After confirming the amount that made his mouth hang agape, he set his next destination with a newly refreshed mood.

“Since I don’t know what dangers may lie ahead on the way, I’ll decide as I go and take it step by step… Shall we go?”

The map in his hands pointed somewhere in the northern part of the old continent.

“The House of the White Reaper.”

As he was about to warp through the gate, a voice resounded in his head.

Kijung: Eong-ah! Are you free now? You’re not a celebrity to keep me waiting all night.

Leeha: Ah, right. Yes, Kijung-ah. What’s up?

Kijung: Kidd wanted me to tell you something important. And there’s something else you need to know.

Leeha: Good timing. Let’s talk briefly. I have something to tell you too. Chiyou has turned into Bathory. I thought I could stop it, but I couldn’t. Sorry.

He pondered on how to deliver this information in the gentlest tone possible.

Leeha: Oh, and by the way, there’s news about Luger. I contacted hyung to come to the village being constructed by Ram Hwayeon.”

Shortly after, the three people who met there all had to put on similar expressions.

“Luger has turned into a monster?”

“Chiyou has become Bathory?”

“Where did Hwajung go? What kind of dragon?! And Chimera was right nearby!”

It took quite a bit of time for the shock to completely dissipate.

Before they could regain their composure and discuss the surprising facts that left them astonished, it took over two hours to organize the information.

“Luger… was turned into a Chimera by Ghibrid”, Kijung began.

“It’s more accurate to say that it was done by a manticore. It’s not a perfect Ghibrid creation.”

Hwayeon added.

“It seems that while a manticore was in the process of turning Luger into a Chimera, a bit of Ghibrid’s power was unintentionally involved, right?”

Leeha nodded as he listened to Kijung and Hwayeon’s accounts.

(To be continued.)
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Pope Urban II, having combined the evidence taken by Kijung and Kidd’s testimony about, had come to a certain conclusion.

It was fortunate that Ghibrid had yet to regain its strength, amidst countless misfortunes, as it was just one small stroke of luck.

“The military strength is increasing, isn’t it?”

Kijung asked.

“Almost. It seems like they are still mainly roaming around areas untouched by the users. The number of Chimeras is definitely on the rise.”

Kijung sighed.

While he had hoped to track down Ghibrid by using Bobae as bait, it was almost impossible to continuously chase after him with Manticores.

Above all else, witnessing the creation of Chimeras made it clear that they had to turn back.

The battle with Ghibrid was not just a simple clash.

If they were to fight against Bluebeard’s Army, death would be the end.

If the power on the users’ side decreased, everything would come to an end. But what about Ghibrid?

“If they become a Chimera, there’s a negative effect on our side and a positive effect on his… It’s a double-edged sword.”

Kijung fully acknowledged this assessment.

But the problem was not just that.

“In the end, it’s just a matter of time. Once they have enough Chimeras, it seems highly likely that Ghibrid himself will head towards the western part of the new continent, likely with Manticores hidden behind.”

“Yes. Pope Urban II also mentioned that. Currently, ran Hwayeon is in command on our side, but if troops from the old continent are dispatched, it seems we’ll have to extend our defense line starting from the Corrupted World Tree Forest.”

“I’ll command the Paleos to push the perimeter in that direction. However, it’s still just a defense. If proper defense forces are not dispatched quickly from the old continent, then probably-”

“I understand. We’ve already sent a formal request to hurry up under the name of the Papacy.”

Kijung looked Ram Hwayeon straight in the eyes.


Ram Hwayeon nodded, swallowing back the ominous hint once again.

Not only could they not commit 100% of the Paleos, but teleportation would become possible from the vicinity of the Corrupted World Tree Forest. If they simply blocked that area and the enemies teleported to another side launching an assault, it would be too late to respond.

Therefore, the Paleos should continue to guard various parts of the western new continent while the users and the NPCs living there form a defense line in the central part of the new continent. This was the most appropriate strategy, and even without Ram Hwayeon explicitly stating it, Kijung had already realized this fact.

The Holy Knights had become even more reliable than before. Listening to their conversation, Leeha firmly pounded his fist. There was a separate topic that caught his interest to the point where even the story of Ghibrid couldn’t get through to his ears.

“Kidd, that guy should at least contact me if something like that happens”, Leeha thought, feeling a tingling sensation run down his spine. The fusion of the Manticore and Luger resulted in a “Monster” possessing the full 『Pierce』 attribute. It was different from when he met Elizabeth Brown. Instead of seeing them as monsters, he had a purpose to extract information from them, which meant he couldn’t fight them with all his might. However, the story would be different if it were a real monster.

How could he deal with it? Leeha could somewhat understand the battle between Kidd and Luger through the stories of righteousness. Unlike the frenzied Luger, Kidd calmly utilized his abilities. Leeha thought it could be more challenging in a sense than actually fighting Luger.

“If Monster Luger were to attack in that form? Running away and hoping for the best… no way. I need to check the explosion range. If I’m not going to snipe from a distance of 36m and even up to 210m, there will be an exchange of fire at a distance where I’d call it ‘close-quarters combat’. If he could fly? Well, then I’ll take his wings with camouflage and sniping, use Jellypong to enhance mobility, and create distance through three-dimensional maneuvers.”

“I don’t know what you’re thinking, but would hyung have come if Kidd had contacted him? That person who said he was busy and asked to talk later…”

“Well, that was– but still! Since Luger turned into a Chimera, I would hurry up and come!”

“No way! Leaving our Hwajung in the grip of the dragon! She didn’t even respond after what Hwajung said earlier, do you know how worried I was?!”

“Thrown her? Who did that? Since Ram Hwajung went on her own!”

Ram Hwayeon let out a sigh, sweeping her chest. The only word Ram Hwajung passed on to Hwayeon, promising an explanation for her sister, was “training.”

“Training, huh.”

“Well, that’s how it is. Although she casually mentioned ‘training’, even the friend list didn’t show a location, and even Chain Teleport doesn’t work in that area… I really thought something had happened.”

“Ahem. That was probably the only way. She went to the Silver Dragon’s Lair.”

“I don’t think it’s time for you to look so proud, Leeha-ssi. You promised to take responsibility and return with Hwajung.”

“Think positively, think positively. This could be an opportunity for Ram Hwajung to become the partner of the dragon.”

Ram Hwayeon was about to retort, calling Leeha intentionally as Leeha-ssi, but seeing Leeha’s warm smile, she couldn’t bring himself to argue any further.

Although there was no specific evidence, his confidence and composure were enough to inspire trust in those around him. And maybe, as Leeha suggested, Ram Hwajung’s choice could be seizing a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity in the Middle Earth.

“So, what are you going to do now, hyung?”


“Me? I have a place to visit.”

“Oh? I was going to ask for your help in slaying a manticore near the Forest of the Contaminated World Tree.”

“Hmm, that is important too… But I also need to level up! Clear some quests! Do you think I’ve been idling around and only a couple of things piled up on me? This ‘leisure time’ is really valuable to me. I have to improve my gear and level up somehow now so I can endure later, or else it’s going to be really tough.”

Although Bathory was a significant event, it ended with her death. Of course, it’s still unknown what happened to Chiyou. Anyway, being watched once a month definitely felt like a bother to Leeha.

What about Ghibrid? They will wander around the eastern part of the New Continent until they completely gather their forces.

In other words, as long as they are careful of Chiyou’s surveillance network, there should be no major friction for the time being — there is a temporal gap, to put it that way!

“Kijung, how about you?”

“… I’m in a similar situation. I feel like I need to improve my skills.”

“Yeah, I feel you.”

Kijung’s expression became more serious.

“It seems like Ghibrid wants me. No, it seems like they only set its eyes on me.”

“… Sorry, it’s a serious talk, but it’s kinda funny when you put it that way.”

“I-I didn’t mean to be funny! I’m serious!”

Kidd said, and Kijung also vaguely realized that.

Having received a 『special mission』 from Urban II, Kijung was once again planning a step-up.

“Alright then. Let’s grab a meal sometime soon.”

“Sounds good. Seeing your face here all the time makes me forget how things are in reality.”

Leeha and Kijung looked at each other and took out their communication devices.

“Then, ran Hwayeon-nim, we ask for your assistance.”

“Don’t worry. I have made sure that the emergency communication network will be immediately activated even in my absence.”


“As expected. Then, hyung! I’ll contact you again!”

After Kijung disappeared using the Modify portal and Leeha attempted to head north towards the Shazrashian Federation, ran Hwayeon grabbed the hem of his clothes.

“You haven’t forgotten, have you? Only a week left.”

“Forgotten – huh? What?”

“What?”

As Ram Hwayeon’s eyes narrowed, Leeha’s brain went into overdrive.

What was it? Did they have a promise? What did they forget? Something in a week? What was it about in a week?

“Ahaha! Of course, I haven’t forgotten! Let’s, let’s have a meal at a nice place then! Right?! You’re treating! Because I’ll be alive.”

“Well, of course, it’s your treat. We’re skipping the year-end party cum New Year’s party of the group. I’m looking forward to it.”

A promise to spend December 31st together.

As Leeha hastily opened his mouth, ran Hwayeon feigned a pout, but her smile showed enough warmth for Leeha.

“Well, well. Just trust me and come to Korea. Then, I’m off!”

Leeha activated the portal. In the midst of it, only one thought crossed his mind. With just a week left until the end of the year, could he still make a reservation for the restaurant on December 31st?

“This is insane… Do we really end up eating something like a triangle kimbap from a convenience store?”

Shuaaaa…!

After teleporting, Leeha logged out.

“Are you saying this is Chiyou’s message. But to say she’s in that state-”

“I can’t believe it.”

Bluebeard did not smile. Before him lay the body of Chiyou transformed into light. No, to be precise, it was the shadow of Chiyou.

“Oh, no, I believe you. But-”

“Kakagat, that goddamn woman, she went out without saying a word and ended up doing this alone? Uh?”

“Igor! It seems like Chiyou isn’t dead yet—”

“Do I look clueless to you?”

Igor approached Chiyou, whose body had turned a ghastly shade, and kicked her.

Despite Faust’s attempts to stop him, Igor didn’t pause.

“No response, as expected. This must be the real deal if she’s not coming back after logging out. So, this concept of being in a quasi-state must mean there’s another way of existence within Middle Earth.” he muttered under his breath.

His actions, seemingly a vent of frustration, were actually a calculated move to assess Chiyou’s condition.

Although Igor appeared to be a simple-minded Giant Berserker, in reality, he operated more like a cunning strategist.

“I should’ve been the one to wield that power instead of Bathory. Damn it, those Jars are pushing again.”

The Rankers in Middle Earth had not gathered there without reason. Of course, Faust was observing the scene as well.

Watching Igor and Faust’s actions, Sasuke couldn’t help but tremble.

“When Chiyou returns—or rather, when the 『Blood Maiden』 returns, we need to be ready immediately.”

“What do we have? Even if Chiyou becomes stronger, it might be pointless.”

Igor stood defiantly with a serrated sword resting on his shoulder and a determined look in his eyes.

Observing this, le stayed silent.

“Of course, you have to get stronger too. Damn it… it’s necessary.”

Le said, his rugged expression indicating his frustration. Faust and Igor had a rough idea of the reason behind it.

Presumably, Bluebeard’s plan was to resurrect Bathory using Chiyou’s blood and utilize Chiyou in his own way. With both pieces coming together into one, it wasn’t as straightforward just to act ruthlessly.

“Kaka, and on top of that, by acting impulsively, the actual score is probably in the negatives. Foolish woman. Getting greedy like that. But to catch that guy, I need to be there.”

Igor thought to himself.

“I may say it’s a guest appearance in the story, but we should consider her dead. Though no one mentioned who did what to whom, given the circumstances, the person who carried out such an act is probably…” Igor and Faust both had one person in mind. Ha Leeha. The one who took the Ranker Hunt achievement. It wasn’t someone the two of them would easily forget.

Bluebeard glanced at Igor and Faust, who were lost in their thoughts, before turning his head.

“Hey, you there.”

“Yes, contractor of the Clan.”

Three beings emerged from the shadows.

These were the three vampires who had managed to escape safely from Bransylvania Castle, which was one of the reasons for Bluebeard’s displeasure. Even after hosting countless parties with vampires at Bransylvania Castle, having only three escape was quite disappointing!

“Haha, very well then. I am a contractor as long as Bathory is not here. So, as I was saying, we have a contract, don’t we? Right?”

“Y-yes, but…”

“We need to borrow your strength.”

Bluebeard rose from his seat. As he twirled his staff and whistled, the vampires hesitated and stepped back.

“Y-yes, we will do whatever we can if it is within our power.”

“Ah-ha—simple! Igor! Faust! Can you come over here?”

Bluebeard called out to Igor and Faust, standing in front of the vampires.

“Hmm, let’s see….”

Bluebeard looked between the vampires and Igor and Faust. Not all vampires were the same. They each had their own characteristics, combat styles, and basic stats.

“Igor, you’re on this side… and Faust, you’re here. Good.”

As if pairing them off, le bound the vampires and users together. (To be continued…)
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Facing Igor, the vampire standing in front of him was a being with a size comparable to a giant.

“It’s a good-looking beast, isn’t it?”

Baring his fangs as if he wanted to sink them into Igor’s neck right away, the vampire displayed the same intention that Igor had.

“Kaka, ask away. We can make a bet on whether your fangs will pierce my neck first or your limbs will fall off first.”

From the perspective of dealing with ‘blood’, vampires weren’t much different from berserkers. Unlike the ominous atmosphere between the two, the vampire facing Faust had a paler complexion and a smaller build compared to other entities.

“You’re a necromancer.”

“Yes. Being a vampire is new to me, so I still lack knowledge. Perhaps you use some kind of magic related to vitality?”

“Blood is often equated with vitality”, the vampire replied with a polite tone and a courteous smile.

That was enough for Faust to speculate on the characteristics of the vampire.

“The ability to consume vitality implies the ability to exude it as well… If the magic is related to vitality, it means not only necromancy but also curses, spellbinding, and sorcery such as warlocks and dark mages are possible. Basic attack skills related to blood would be similar to those of berserkers.”

What profession is associated with the hinting words, and what skills does that profession utilize?

Faust silently nodded his head.

Bluebeard gestured towards one of the vampires without a partner.

“Hey, you, go over there.”

Sasuke, who thought he would be paired off with someone, looked somewhat disappointed as another vampire walked out in his place due to his own decisions.

However, Bluebeard was completely indifferent to Sasuke, so there was no room for him to argue against it.

“Understand it as ‘forming a group and moving forward’ from now on, contractor of the Clan.”

“Huh? What are you talking about? Didn’t I say it earlier?”

As the vampire left alone near Sasuke opened his mouth to speak, Bluebeard chuckled instead.


“Huh?”

And as the vampire began to question back—

Siiiik!

Bluebeard’s staff cut through the air.

In the dim cave, the screams of the four echoed.

Igor, Faust, and the two vampires paired with them.

“Aaaah!”

“What-what’s going on – Aaah!”

The crimson aura escaping from the vampires flowed towards Igor and Faust. Seeing this, Bluebeard let out a sigh.

“Phew, it seems to work well even when I do it.”

“Contractor of the vampire clan! What’s this?”

“You agreed to this, didn’t you? I distinctly remember saying, ‘I will lend you my power’, right? Hehe.”

One corner of Le’s mouth twisted upwards.

The lone vampire left could do nothing. Even as he watched his comrades, Igor and Faust, standing before him, withering and contorting more and more.

“You! Go to the other castle that Bathory built and awaken all the vampires there.”

“Yes, yes, yes? Em!”

Just the tip of the staff pointed towards him made the lone vampire unable to resist.

“Hurry up, even for just one day… we must finish everything before they rampage further.”

A sinister smile crept onto the lips with Bluebeard.

By the time the surviving vampire transformed into a bat and fled out of the cave, the vampires once paired with Igor and Faust were nothing but ruins, not a single corpse left behind.


“This is insane… what’s happening, Chiyou-nim!”

Watching that scene, a chill ran down Sasuke’s spine. He wanted to log out immediately and report to Chiyou, but he couldn’t.

“There, in Chiyou’s eyes.”

“Yes!”

“When Igor and Faust come to their senses, take them away.”

“Where… should we go? And what about Chiyou-nim-”

“Don’t worry about Chiyou. I’ll take care of her. Worried, are you?”

Bluebeard perched on Chiyou’s back as she lay still on the ground.

To Le, Sasuke was just that, a mere existence.

‘Uh… no, I’m not.’

If he rebelled here, le might harm Chiyou. At least on Middle Earth, Chiyou had already logged out. Sasuke knew that her connection had been terminated just like a death penalty.

But what if Bluebeard did something here? What would happen to the ‘power’ Chiyou had just acquired, that she had yet to use?

Without certainty about that, Sasuke couldn’t possibly rebel against Bluebeard.

“Well, it seems it’s over now. Quickly, take them away.”

“Where should we go?”

Sasuke gritted his teeth and asked politely.

Bluebeard glanced at Igor and Faust for a moment and then raised his staff.

Swish. His staff pointed towards a wall in the cave. Sasuke knew it was not a sign to rush towards that wall.

“Understood.”

Although he couldn’t tell what Bluebeard was up to, there was no other way until Chiyou logged in.


“Igor, Faust, are you ready— huh?!”

Sasuke, who was approaching the two, suddenly stopped in surprise and stepped back.

“Wh-what—”

“Kaha… kaka-kak! What is this!?”

“Oh… Was this it…”

Standing in front of him were clearly Igor and Faust. However, they were not the Igor and Faust Sasuke knew.

“Igor, Faust”, Bluebeard called out, and ‘mind speech’ echoed in their heads.

“Haha, it seems I made a good choice coming this way after a long time.”

“Hoo, this is interesting. Very interesting.”

“What? What command did we just receive—”

“Haha, no time, let’s go!”

Bluebeard, who gave some sort of instruction to Igor and Faust, immediately urged them on. Sasuke led them away without further questioning. As long as Sasuke had the skill to hide their appearance while moving, it wouldn’t be easy to spot Igor and Faust easily.

“Well… it would be nice if the time is right… A pleasant gift exchange time, you know…”

Still perched on Chiyou’s body, Bluebeard took out a pocket watch from his pocket and looked at it.

***

“High Priest! You’re not going to shoot?!”

“No… I won’t shoot. Bullets are precious.”

“What… What do you mean? The danger is right in front of us!”

Blaugrunn shouted as he saw the monster rushing towards them. However, Leeha only aimed with Black Bass held up, without pulling the trigger.

“No. It’s not dangerous.”

“Wha—? Ah, dodge—”

Blaugrunn tried to use magic towards Leeha, but Leeha’s movements were faster. Swish—! Leeha easily dodged the monster’s attack.

“This jerk! Hand over the elixir!”

He gripped the Black Bass backward and slammed it down onto the unicorn’s head.

Screaaaam!

A clear and cheerful sound echoed throughout the plains of Shazrashian in the North.

Level 170, standing at 2.70 shoulder height and over 40 long, the ‘Frost-Laden Unicorn’.

“Bwaaah…!”

The mid-level Shazrashian giants, engaging in party play to hunt monsters, were hit by a single attack: stunned.

Then, Leeha hung the Black Bass over his shoulder and grabbed Toon’s claw dagger that glows.

“Elixer, hand it over, elixer! Hey, hey!”

He then lunged forward and sliced the staggering unicorn’s horn, chop, chop, chop… The giant users watching nearby looked on in a daze.

“What is he doing, anyway?”

“… A rogue? An assassin class?”

“He’s not even killing the unicorn, just cutting off its horn… what’s up with that?”

He successfully managed to cut off the horn without killing the unicorn.

As the blood glistened on the severed horn, the stunned unicorn regained consciousness but didn’t rush at him anymore.

“Wanna try more?”

“W-w-wait…”

Thud thud thud thud!

After the charge, the unicorn’s horn strike, the biggest attack, it turned around and bolted away.

“What are you doing? You almost scared me stiff!”

“Scared you? There’s still something else to be surprised about! Blaugrunn-ssi, do you think there could be anything threatening to me here?”

“Well, that’s not the only thing…”

He burst into laughter, looking at the worried Blaugrunn. Perhaps he had become too accustomed to living on the new continent. The monsters of the old continent didn’t even seem like monsters anymore.

“No, they do look like monsters. All frightening creatures look the same. But the change in himself from comparing the days of hunting in the old continent with now was the driving force of his confidence. But that’s not all.

He still had nearly 250 status points saved up.

“Still, be careful, please. In my eyes, you still look like you might fly away at the slightest breeze-”

“What? Are you saying that about me? Blaugrunn-ssi, have you seen me like that? Unless someone like Pyro and Crowley shows up, there’s no way an ordinary monster can pose a threat so don’t worry anyway.”

He was momentarily taken aback hearing Blaugrunn’s absurd concerns. In reality, battling the monsters here was much less challenging and difficult compared to fighting while climbing the Eternal Snow Mountains.”

What will happen to Pyro in the end?

Leeha briefly pondered what kind of emotions Pyro harbored towards him.

Could it be that even this time, he sees him as good as dead?

He will probably fan the flames of rivalry even more after witnessing Ram Hwajung’s incredible skills. Although if he engages in friendly competition from our end, it might help… But he’s not that kind of person.

How difficult is it to change a once alienated heart?

Perhaps, by recognizing Ram Hwajung as one of his companions, he might further stoke his animosity towards himself.

“Phew. Dealing with Crowley is quite burdensome.”

The same went for when they ascended inside the Bransylvania Castle. Crowley was more cunning than expected and had more potions than anticipated.

The reason Leeha could quickly deal with Crowley was simple: “Prea stood by my side until the end.”

Prea exposed Crowley’s trap, causing the formidable potions he unleashed to freeze in place.

As Leeha ulled the trigger towards Crowley while hearing his laughter, it was already too late. While the bullet would have pierced through Crowley’s head, Prea’s freezing power turned the tide by solidifying the potions pouring towards Leeha.

Prea: Damn it! You should have shot sooner! It’s dangerous to see ice forming! Alright, I’ve done my part, so logging out now~? Don’t forget about my points this time! For real! Got it?

Then, without giving Leeha a chance to stop her, Prea didn’t log out.

‘Even if she is revealed to be a spy, could it be that she preemptively logged out to avoid me asking her to come along? No, let’s not think poorly of her. She did her best.

At this level, trust should be a given.

Prea did her best.

“But, was that truly her best?

Shouldn’t the real best have been to finish the job of stopping Chiyou and me from ascending together?

Isn’t she still teetering between Chiyou and me?”

“Sigh, it’s so simple yet so complicated.”

“What do you mean?”

“It’s about human affairs. Why does the White Reaper live so far away?”

“Huh? Let’s go together! There’s no interference here, so we can just fly!”

“Oh right, that’s true. Let’s hurry then.

‘Panlin de Choeupbeukbu’, a part of the Shazrashian Federation to the far north…”

Shazrashian, a federation created by uniting several small kingdoms, where even at the northwestern end lies Panlin, a small region. The White Reaper’s map pointed towards that place.

If supplemented by Blaugrunn’s magic, Leeha calculated that they could arrive there before sunset. As the sun began to tilt after noon, passing through a few villages and nearing a cabin perched in the middle of the mountain, strange rumors were circulating in the capital of Minis.

“Oh, Alexander is dead! Alexander is dead!”

“When will the orders come? It’s so darn boring. Hmph! Has that thing we talked about been investigated and concluded?”

“Is it really concluded? If it had, we would’ve informed the commander first.”

“Ugh, how boring, so boring. I want to move on to the new continent quickly…”

Lark huffed, kicking his feet up on the desk. Given that he was handling the internal affairs of Minis after persuading the Minis King, he wasn’t in the best of moods.

(To be continued.)
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“Ewin is the chief commander, yet he makes me do all these unnecessary errands.”

There was no real reason for him to be running around, no bonding moments with the 480s, just a series of chores and tasks that were nothing more than errands.

Even if he were to be assigned an administrative role, it would be more than enough, but being part of the Capital Defense Knights, it was simply unbearable for him.

“Get yourself together. In Fibiel, Shin Nara does everything from A to Z.”

“Well then, why don’t you do it?”

Lark retorted, pursing his lips.

“Anyway, she’s… an amazing woman. Mentally, she must be exhausted, I can’t imagine how she endures it.”

The work in Middle Earth didn’t physically exhaust one. Of course, there were issues like lack of sleep over time and decreasing muscle mass, but it wasn’t exactly physical exhaustion. But when it came to interpersonal relationships…

Even if it was just a ‘virtual relationship’, it could get quite tangled, and administrative tasks, even with set procedures, could still pile up stress from approvals and decisions.

If one were to list those who handle it best in Middle Earth, Shin Nara would undoubtedly be included.

As Lark thought back to Shin Nara with respect.

“Oh, speaking of which, there’s a strange rumor going around.”

“A rumor?”

Lark lowered his feet that were up on the desk.

Pung nodded and brought over a chair to sit next to Lark.

“They say Alexander is dead.”

“Alexander? Wait a minute.”

Lark immediately sent a private message to Alexander.

Normally, it would’ve been blocked anyway, but after the paleo incident, he had gained some closeness with Alexander and earned the right to contact him.


Since then, they had occasionally exchanged messages as top rankers.

“Of course, I sent my regards too, but there was no response to the message.”

Sending messages to Alexander yielded no response.

“No response at all. Well, maybe he just logged out. Why would a rumor of his death suddenly spread? Who saw it?”

“I’m not sure. As I said, it’s a strange rumor. From what I know, Alexander last died around level 150, right? But there were rumors that he had already surpassed level 330, so it doesn’t make sense for him to die now.”

Though Pung mentioned it as nothing significant, Lark found that detail rather unsettling.

Lark, also a user from Minis Kingdon same as Alexander, was familiar with the legendary tales of the extraordinary adventures of Alexander.

Since the time he started leveling up, his unbelievable and spectacular adventures had once instilled in Lark the dream of becoming a skilled swordsman like him.

Suddenly, memories flooded back to Lark, and he chuckled as he gripped his sword handle.

“Yeah, looking for a dragon and ending up facing all these weird things. Thinking about the old days, Lark realized he was holding the handle of his sword and quickly released his grip.”

Although… the rumor of Alexaner’s death isn’t the type to spread so easily. Nobody would believe he’s dead. Yet, why is there a rumor circulating about his death? ‘Heh, how interesting it is.’

Lark suddenly stood up.

‘What? C-Captain! Why all of a sudden? Where are you going?’

‘I need to track down the rumors. There might be some scoundrel behind it or he might have truly died. Regardless, it seems necessary to investigate in any case.’

There is a possibility that someone spread the rumor with a purpose in mind. If not, there might be someone who fought with Alexander.

‘Either way, it’s a serious situation. Even if they didn’t succeed in killing him, the fact that there is a force spreading rumors about his death is concerning.’

Lark paused for a moment, pondering silently before sending a message telepathically.

– Are you busy? It seems like a potential threat to the country’s interests has emerged.

‘If we’re going to track it, we should take the kids along-‘ Wow!

A sudden gust of wind blew, prompting Lark to draw his sword. However, despite his reaction, he simply chuckled as he looked at the approaching figure. Steps approached in the sound of sand being swept by the wind. The man who appeared with the sandstorm approached Lark and spoke, “What is the hindrance you speak of?”


With a deep voice and a sharp attitude, Lark couldn’t help but feel that this person was easy to handle for some reason.

“Hey, you don’t even greet before going straight to the point like that.”

A player who doesn’t hesitate to do anything for the sake of their country’s interests. Capable of protecting themselves sufficiently even in the face of serious combat, a person strong against various information and strategies.

‘Long time no see, Cheka.’

The person Lark referred to as his assistant was a secret agent of Minis.”

* *

“I knew he was impressive, but…”

Lark observed Cheka’s activities in the dark alley. It was rumored that Alexander had died, as his current whereabouts couldn’t be confirmed, there was a possibility that this rumor contained some sinister intentions.

‘It’s only been 1 hour and 40 minutes since the rumor started spreading-‘ Even though the news was spread around sunset, Cheka managed to capture the initial spreader of the rumor around dusk, with the moon just beginning to show.”

“Using a carrot and a whip like that. Well, I don’t know if that’s really a whip.”

Crack-!

Something that had flown out of Cheka’s armpit dug into the stone wall.

“If there’s a mix of lies, your life in Minis won’t be smooth.”

“R-Really?”

“Who ordered it?”

“I-I didn’t order it! I just saw it passing by and reported what I saw! Who would order such a thing? Why would they order it?”

The user who was being hit by Cheka’s whip(?) hurriedly explained, struggling to get his words out. His words were clear enough to be heard even from Lark’s position, so the general situation could be sorted out.

‘Just for that reason, huh. What a bore, even if it’s an oil well.’

The reason the original spreader spread the rumor of Alexander’s death was simple.

A dragon flying in the sky suddenly crashed to the ground and disappeared.


Someone who looked like a person was riding on that dragon.

That person also fell to the ground, and when he arrived at the location, neither the dragon nor any human remains were visible.

The dragon was yellowish like Bailephus.

‘It didn’t look like someone was hunting, so it’s not a monster dragon, there’s no one else but Alexander who would be traveling with a dragon, and there was no body left at the crash site, so it must have been a ‘user’…’

The original spreader’s words had some reason to them, but to Lark, it was just nonsense.

“Help! G-Guards!”

While Cheka glanced at Lark for a moment, the user slipped out from under Cheka’s arm and escaped.

“It’s no use even if you tell the guards…”

“Ah, that’s enough. Chasing after them will just tire us out.”

Grabbing Cheka, who was about to chase after them, Lark left the alley.

“Any loot?”

“Some. But it’s not exactly what I was hoping for.”

“Hope?”

Cheka’s eyebrow twitched.

Lark cursed inwardly at his slip of the tongue.

“No, I mean, I thought there would be rumors like ‘Alexander killed Lee Jiwon!’ or something like that. Or… there might be a third party spreading malicious rumors.”

“Like ‘Parasite in the Lion’s Belly’?”

Cheka speculated one of the reasons Lark was waffling.

Since Lark had dropped that word to Cheka but hadn’t revealed any further information, from the secret agent’s perspective, they had no choice but to follow Lark’s uncertain words.

“How about following the location where the user presumed to be Alexander and the dragon crashed… will you go?”

“Of course.”

“Alright, alright. I should follow up to that place too.”

Despite thinking it was nothing major, Lark was curious nonetheless.

Dragons flying in the sky don’t just crash suddenly. Unless a large attack party was raiding, the word ‘crash’ would not have been used.

“I’ve seen a dragon flying in the sky suddenly turning into a human before. If there’s a possibility, it must be related to that.”

The dragon flying in the sky might have used a skill to transform into a human for some reason, and the initial spreader mistook the sight of them flying with winged magic as a ‘crash.’

Lark’s thoughts were quite reasonable.

The discovery site was not far from the capital of Minis.

Using a warp gate to travel to a nearby village, the two headed towards the place mentioned by the initial spreader.

“Shall we see, is Yellow Dragon Lair the closest from here? It makes some sense, but it’s not a distance far enough for a monster to turn during a raid…”

“Of course.”

“Above all, the dragon raid is not something done at any time—ah, it seems there is a guild raiding today—”

“Love and Peace.”

“What, what?”

“Love and Peace guild was informed to start the Yellow Dragon Lair raid around 3 PM.”

Cheka replied to Lark’s muttering. Suddenly, a sinister theory crossed Lark’s mind.

The yellow dragon’s crash.

The day Yellow Dragon Lair was raided.

And this place so far from the raid.

Lark: Pung! Contact one of the Love and Peace guild members, ask how the raid went today.

Pung: What?

Lark: Quick!

As Lark increased his pace, Cheka also followed suit.

Recalling the initial spreader’s words, Lark quickly identified the spot estimated to be the dragon’s crash site by comparing the surrounding terrain.

“Cheka, check from this side. That skill from before!”

“One moment.”

Cheka was able to trace back the rumor circulation due to a skill similar to Pere Nangi’s ‘Detective’ skill that she possessed.

Cheka immediately started investigating in a low position.

“If it crashed, there should be some trace left behind. Lark was thinking differently.

Perhaps the Love and Peace guild attempted the Yellow Dragon Lair raid but failed, and angered Ello Dragon came out of hiding?”

“Cursed, it’s a somewhat amusing situation in its own way! Dealing with a dragon is no easy task!”

Rare but possible occurrences were not unheard of. The monster village invasion events had been irregular and unexpected, and this time the target was just a dragon.

“Huh?”

“Why? Did something catch your eye?”

Lark stopped walking towards Cheka and turned to face him.

Though Cheka was saying something to him, Lark didn’t catch his words.

“Rainbow Knight?”

“Uh… Haha, this is insane.”

“Is what I just found related to this?”

Cheka noticed that Lark had spoken with someone and Lark nodded.

“Love and Peace Guild didn’t do the Dragon Raid today. No, they couldn’t.”

The news from Pung was a very simple fact.

– I heard Love and Peace Guild came back today empty-handed from the dragon raid. Apparently, there were no dragons or treasure, a complete waste of time.

Then what happened to the dragon?

Cheka’s dark expression darkened even more.

“Uh…well… I think…it’s related to the footprints of two individuals I found here?”

“Cursed, I hope it’s not the case. The traces of the dragon…”

“Yes. The scales of an adult class Yellow Dragon were scattered around.”

The dragon was definitely here with the two unknown people Cheka found.

Then where did they go, and what happened to the dragon?

There was not only the place to worry about.

– Captain! Isn’t it to the southwest, towards Dijong Village? Go check it out, quickly!

– What? What’s going on all of a sudden?

– There’s been an attack reported at Dijong Village from the Security Headquarters! Requesting immediate reinforcement!

Lark’s face darkened as much as Cheka’s.

Minis-affiliated Dijong was a village relatively close to where Lark and Cheka were.

“Could it be, Cheka-nim! Do we have time?”

“There’s no time—”

“Come on, it’s urgent! The dragon might be there! To Dijong! Scroll of Return!”

Lark immediately activated the Scroll of Return.

Dijong Village wasn’t far, but the urgency of the situation demanded immediate action. Despite grumbling, Cheka followed Lark, and they quickly flew to Dijong using the warp gate.

“Ah, the smell of fresh blood.”

What Lark and Cheka found upon arrival was a gruesome sight. At least, it was difficult to see it as something done by an Yellow Dragon… the marks of slaughter. Lark had seen a similar scene of slaughter before.

Toon? As Lark looked at the devastated Dijong Village, the name of the monster that came to his mind was the most vicious of all monsters he had seen so far, Toon.

(To be continued…)
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Lark immediately drew his sword. As the sword was drawn from its sheath, a brilliant light residue followed, catching Cheka’s attention momentarily. However, he quickly returned to reality. Cheka knew well how important the current situation was, more so than Lark’s sword.

“There are no survivors nearby.”

“I can see that. We should start searching first. There might still be dragons around, so let’s split up and move.”

“Split up?”

“If those troublemakers… no, whoever they are, stick together, wouldn’t there be a high chance of both of us dying? Let’s form a party.”

It seemed like being separated meant at least not being taken down at once.

Cheka understood this without Lark having to say it.

And he was not the type to boast about being strong even in such situations. Cheka started to trace back to where the initial battle had begun, while Lark searched for survivors.

Step by step, the two had moved far apart, their footsteps now even inaudible to each other.

“If these are just bandits, their combat ability must be decent… So they wouldn’t have just basic defense like city guards. There must have been at least a knight unit stationed nearby, right?”

It had only been a few minutes since they discovered the corpses. Lark furrowed his brows as he examined the bodies. Fast. This was too fast. The corpses did not discriminate between users and NPCs. Even without looting, the levels of the corpses could be roughly estimated based on the equipment they wore.

While the majority of users were below level 100, there were also some users around level 200.

Even with the combined forces of the users and NPC guards, they couldn’t ‘escape’ since the slaughter happened so swiftly.

‘Could it really be a dragon? No, even if it’s a dragon, it would be difficult to do this alone. Then… multiple dragons? Judging by the range of the incident in Dijong Village, there was no way a single individual could have done it. Furthermore, there were only user and NPC corpses, not a single corpse that looked like a monster.

‘A crime committed by a group?’

Lark’s thoughts were racing.

“But for what reason?”

If it was a fight to gain substantial control over Dijong Village, killing everyone off like this seemed meaningless. Was it just for the sake of the game? ‘That could be possible, but if that were the case, they would have attacked another village on the outskirts instead of going through the trouble here. Dealing with a frontier village or a small-scale village without a trace would have been possible. If we think this way, those who would resort to such actions must be affiliated with the Minis’ guild.’

If they had carried out the attack under the banner of the Cubil or Shazrashian guilds, it would become an issue between countries.


To resolve that problem, the home country would have to purge the users who initiated such actions first, but even then, regaining lost trust would be difficult.

Therefore, it was undoubtedly a crime committed by a group affiliated with Minis.

Lark was on the verge of coming up with an answer. They only needed to meet Chaka at the opposite end of the town through different routes.

“There are no survivors. Judging by the nature of the corpses and the speed of the incidents, it seems like something the Gideon’s guild was involved in. I’m not sure of the purpose, but if we keep searching for a criminal group made up of chaotic users-”

“No.”

“-Huh?”

“…’All the corpses I inspected died instantly with the same pattern of attack. Above all, I discovered only one movement that was peculiar among the fleeing humans.”

“Uh… What does that mean-”

“It means one person did it.”

Dijong village was annihilated.

By just one person.

Lark realized the seriousness of the situation.

“Let’s head back to the capital.”

What started as Lark’s investigation triggered by the unfounded rumor of Alexander’s death led to an unexpected discovery.

***

“What could possibly be here?”

“According to the map, this is correct… and my location is also marked here. Hm.”

Leeha chuckled as he surveyed the inside of the house.

A shabby hut that clearly showed no sign of human touch. There were no special items to be found in the cramped house where barely one person could live.

“It was the house of a Human Flesh Hunter, so I thought there might be some eerie items, but…”


“Eerie items?”

“Yes. For example… firearms used by the White Reaper, you know.”

The item Leeha was truly hoping for was exactly that. Of course, he didn’t have high expectations.

“You won’t encounter those who easily give up items after just one or two tries. They’re not that simple to hand over their items.”

There must be some kind of quest.

By assigning a very difficult quest and clearing it, there is a high probability of receiving a rifle as a reward.”

But how? They said the White Reaper was already executed.”

Leeha took out a potion of White Reaper’s Snow Sickness from his bag and drank it.

『Legendary White Reaper’s White Plague Potion』 Description: The White Reaper who ascended the scaffold said this.

“Do not fear the winter. Enduring the cold is impossible. Just be cold. However, if you have the potion I made, you can endure the cold a little better.”

This potion contains the secret of the legendary Human Flesh Hunter, the White Reaper, who traversed the frozen ice and snow-covered mountains. It is said that he withstood the cold by creating a disease known as ‘Snow Sickness’ and taking the potion.

“Up on the scaffold… No, no way? Went up but didn’t die and came down? Are you trying to tell me something like that? Ah, it’s absurd. That can’t be.”

“What’s wrong?”

“Oh, nothing. Even in a place like the Middle Earth, joking about that… If I joke about that, I’ll get in trouble.”

He let out a disappointed laugh and looked around.

It was clearly stated in the description of the potion. He personally created a disease called ‘White Reaper’.

Where did he create it?

Connecting the map he saw when he used White Reaper, this place was clearly it.

‘So, there should be traces of the White Reaper, ‘Shimo’, somewhere around here… What should I look for in a place where even spider webs aren’t properly spun because it’s too cold?’

What could possibly be in a place where even animals don’t use as shelter because they couldn’t properly block the snowstorm?


“Is there any distortion of mana?”

“I checked immediately. There are no hidden spaces.”

“I thought it might be similar to when we were at Kaztor, but… it doesn’t seem like that either.”

Leeha expected there to be hidden parts covered with mana while exploring the research institute of Fibiel Castle. However, there was nothing like that?

So, is it really just a cabin with nothing?

Thud, thud, thud.

Leeha paced around the cabin with a furrowed brow.

“But this doesn’t make sense. Even if it reflects reality to some extent, it’s still a game… It can’t be that we came all the way here and there’s nothing. There must be something somewhere-”

Thud-.

~

“Why are you like this, Ha Leeha-nim?”

Leeha raised his foot and carefully set it down.

The sensation felt beyond the withered carpet on the verge of complete decay soon turned into conviction.

“Aw, darn it. Yeah, it’s not an illusion by mana. But this is such a classic trick!?”

Leeha immediately lifted the carpet. As dust and snowflakes fluttered and drifted, a wooden floor identical to the surrounding tree floor but with very subtle blemishes caught his eye.

“Oh! A secret hiding place!”

“Hehehe, that’s right. Just like in the movies.”

Blaugrunn marveled, and Leeha chuckled in response.

“A movie?”

“No, no. Anyway. Blaugrunn! There are no special trap spells here, right?”

“Yes! If there was such a thing, I would have triggered it when I detected mana earlier”, the curious Bronze Dragon said, eyes gleaming. Carefully observing its appearance, Leeha gently placed their ear on the ground.

Inserting a finger into a small groove and lifting a wooden plank would reveal the entrance.

“Just because they didn’t use mana doesn’t guarantee there are no traps. However, using classic disguises like this, are they low-tech enough to have a trap?”

Inserting a finger and lifting the wooden plank with just enough force to trigger like pulling a trigger, Leeha raised the wooden plank.

Creak-!

Aside from the sound of the old wooden latch twisting, it was quiet.

“Okay, it’s clear.”

Satisfied that there were no apparent threats, Leeha fully opened it after confirming there were no danger elements.

As soon as the stairs leading underground appeared, Blaugrunn cast a light spell.

“Shall I go first?”

“No, please just provide the light. I think it’s better for me to go first since there are no magical traps, considering your skill.”

Being aware that there were no traps set by magic, Leeha’s skillful techniques would be more helpful.

Taak… Taak…

Taking one step at a time, Leeha descended underground, preparing for any potential accidents.

Leeha also checked the dirt walls, pressing them to see if there were any suspicious spots or elements that needed to be pushed to proceed. What would be the White Reaper-related quests? How could they acquire their firearms? What task could they accomplish to obtain them? At least at this moment, Leeha’s purpose was not to obtain an item for Blackbeard’s synthesis purpose.

Driven by the innate curiosity of a sniper, at that moment, Leeha was descending underground with just that thought in mind. Carefully, step by step, taking almost 30 minutes to descend a depth of barely twenty steps, Leeha finally found the door to the basement.

“It won’t be detected by mana detection.”

“Phew, good. It must be where the senior is.”

“The senior?”

“Heh, when I was being educated, I heard a lot of real names. Among them! The one and only! Now, the dongsaeng is here!”

Click-!

Convinced that there were no more traps, Leeha opened the door.

With a rush of musty smell, Blaugrunn’s light illuminated the “White Reaper’s hideout!”

“Wow, amazing! Cool!”

“I’m not sure what’s so great about it.”

There were a few items that looked like scientific experiment tools, and a few books. Some decayed scrolls were scattered around.

Each trace telling the story of long-gone days seemed splendid in Leeha’s eyes.

“Huh?”

“Hmm? Hey, what’s that… What is it?”

While Leeha and Blaugrunn explored the hideout that was wider than a house above ground, a peculiar item caught their eyes.

“Isn’t that a rifle?”

An object hanging on the wall. It was undoubtedly a rifle.

“Seems like it. But why… why is there a rifle?”

Leeha quickly approached it. Despite not being maintained and covered in rust, the rifle bore traces of human touch.

‘And if this model is correct, then I’m sure. If my memory serves me well, it’s the Finnish-produced Model 1428 from Mosin-Nagant. It was the White Reaper’s rifle.’

“No, it could be the White Reaper’s rifle, but—it shouldn’t be here! It shouldn’t be here at all!”

“Eh? Isn’t it a good thing? I thought you’d be thrilled.”

“No, it’s good. It’s good… But…”

“The quest? Various exciting stories related to the White Reaper? Legends like the sniper and grand tales?”

Erasing the name of a missing country like Shazrashian Federation to ‘Panrand’, the alias ‘White Reaper’ and ‘White Soldier’, even delving into his name ‘Shimo’ and the historical records of his assassination in Middle Earth’s model… is this how it ends?”

“Ah… Something feels… feels empty.”

“Empty?”

How could Leeha express this complex mix of emotions? Leeha sighed as he watched Blaugrunn raise his eyebrows.

“Well, I guess I should just accept that it turned out well. Oh well.”

Nevertheless, it was what it was! With that in mind, Leeha picked up the rifle, thinking that he should achieve his goal quickly.

(To be continued…)
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『Legendary Mosin Nagant of the White Reaper』 Attack Power: (User’s Agility × 5)

Effect: Agility +21

Description: A rifle that the White Reaper personally made and used to protect the homeland from “Krabavi.”

Despite its simplicity compared to a musket, perhaps what sets it apart is that the White Reaper’s grudge was used as a material. Having slain 542 people in just 100 days, he became a hero of “Paland”, but was later executed with the humiliating title of 『Human Flesh Hunter』 by Krabavi, the ruler of the Shazrashian Federation. Nevertheless, the people of Paland would all be proud of him. Unable to find the one hidden in the snow despite Krabavi’s 25 knightly orders searching, they had no choice but to take his family hostage. Additional Effect: If immobile for more than 5 seconds, harmonize with the surrounding terrain/objects.

Despite the fact that its agility bonus effect was lower than Black Bass’, and its attack power was no match for Black Bass, such matters did not concern him at the moment.

“Kya… Taking aim, eh. The details are a bit different from what I remember… Well, it’s based on a real person, so it couldn’t be just thrown in haphazardly. Krabavi is like the Soviet Union, huh.”

He had known for some time that it followed a name and progression somewhat similar to actual history. Moreover, if it was a field he knew well, he could easily notice a few altered names.

“Hmm, the additional effect of harmonizing with the surroundings when immobile sounds sweet. Is it an unlimited camouflage with no cooldown?”

Was it faithfully copied from the characteristics of a real-life sniper? Leeha admired the senior(?) once again for their achievement.

“Is it over now?”

“Yes! Just in case, let’s save the location and get back. The urgent matter is synthesis after all.”

“Ah, that’s a shame.”

“Right? I felt the same way earlier.”

Symapthizing with Blaugrunn who was looking around, Leeha brought out a teleport scroll.

***

“Bottleneck-ssi~”

Clang-! Clang-!

Even though it was now late at night, the sound of hammers from Bottleneck’s smithy didn’t stop.

“Castle Lord? Has it been days since you last visited? I heard there was a newcomer, but seeking a caliber similar to Black Bass is… not easy.”


Bottleneck couldn’t continue his words upon seeing Leeha’s appearance.

His eyes were staring at Leeha’s left shoulder. The rifle slung over the right shoulder was clearly Black Bass. And what about the left shoulder?

“I’ve found it. Hehe, this is a legendary item just like Black Bass. Its characteristics can be considered quite similar to 『Accuracy』, the White Reaper’s monologue was muttered to himself.

Ignoring the warning, Leeha carefully handled the neglected rifle and placed it on the table.

“What’s this?”

“The Lord is impressive. How did you manage to find it so quickly?”

“Haha, well. When Bottleneck said I need to find one, I had to find it!”

As the hammer sounds stopped, the dwarves, including the Beard Brothers, approached and admired the new rifle.

“Look at this, can we see it? Huh? Is it okay for us to look at this?”

“Of course. If it’s not seen by Bottleneck, who else will see it? You should take a good look and consider what needs to be synthesized.”

Pushing away the dwarves, Bottleneck almost pressed his nose against the rifle on the table.

Leeha responded with a faint smile to him.

“All right, yeah, that’s the spirit! It’s similar conditions to reinforcement. First, we need to 『analyze』 it.”

“That might take about a week.”

“That’s right. Well, for Black Bass’s case, it would only take five days.”

Looking at the twinkling dwarves, Leeha wondered if Bottleneck was possibly more eager to test the synthesis than himself. He realized once again that the artisans of Middle Earth were full of endless curiosity, regardless of race and profession.

“Five days are fine, but there’s no need to rush. Please take it slow and be accurate. It’s an old rifle after all.”

“Of course! I swear to the God of the Hammer, I will handle it as delicately as I manage my beard every morning and evening…”

“Wait, you were actually managing it?”

“Of course! I manage it every morning and evening.”


Bottleneck’s beard, meticulously groomed with impeccable neatness, could be mistaken for being a well-kept crop.

Leeha couldn’t quite grasp the meaning of being as delicate as that, but at the very least, he didn’t suspect that Bottleneck’s 『Analysis』 would make the White Reaper’s rifle disappear.”

Actually, there’s data on Black Bass. Since the dwarf analyzed Black Bass’ model, there’s no way he can’t analyze the 20th-century weapons.

‘All that’s left is to trust and wait.’

‘I’ll come at the right time. Oh, right, about what I mentioned earlier-”

“Oh, that hasn’t been done yet. Should we start with that? It’s possible to do that if necessary.”

“No, that’s not urgent either. First, focus on the firearms, and we can take care of that later.”

With a light heart, watching Bottleneck, who didn’t raise his voice as usual, Leeha left the workshop.

But how do you combine two handguns with different bullet sizes? It seems impossible, even though they have the common feature of bolt action. Of course, that’s if it’s reality.

“He’ll figure it out. Let’s not worry about it for now.”

With Blaugrunn returned to Rare and safely retrieved the White Reaper’s firearms, there was no longer a burden on their minds.

“Chiyou… I can’t figure anything out in the current situation anyway. Prea also decided on the login time to establish an alibi, so there are still a few days left. Let’s relax during that time.”

There was only one obstacle, but it was something they couldn’t worry about! So, what mattered to the current situation was just one thing.

“I should check out restaurants for the year-end quickly. I might end up eating at a convenience store.”

Securing the best spot for December 31st was the only way for him to survive.

As Leeha surfed the internet, took a nap, and connected, it was already after Sahol’s time in Middle Earth.

“This is driving me crazy. Even the places that seemed okay are already fully booked. What should I do?”

Since the work at Bottleneck’s workshop was not yet finished, it was natural for Leeha to worry about real-life matters. With only 5 days left in real-time until Ram Hwayeon arrived, he still hadn’t found a place to eat.

“Oh no, should I have asked her what she likes? Even if it’s not a Korean restaurant, I should have reserved a place-”

Nara: Leeha! You’re finally here!”


Leeha: Ahh! Nara, Nara-ssi?”

Nara: Why are you so surprised?”

The conversation from Nara popped into Leeha’s head as he rubbed his temple.

“Oh, no. Uh, what’s going on?”

Feeling suddenly uneasy, Leeha was momentarily flustered. Why does he feel like he’s doing something wrong?

Since Nara would usually probe suspiciously, this added to Leeha’s confusion, but Nara didn’t ask any further.

Nara: If you have time now, please teleport right away. It’s to the Old Continent Leeha: Old Continent? Oh, yes. Understood.”

Leeha opened his friend’s window to check the location of Shin Nara in excitement. Shortly after, he used a chain teleportation scroll and arrived at a small village in the northwest of Fibiel.

“Nara, it’s been a while… Well, this doesn’t seem like the right moment”, he said. No, it was not just any small village. I immediately clenched the Black Bass.

Even though it was a small village, it felt eerily empty, even with no people around. What stood out the most was that every few individuals present were wearing the cloak of the Sacred Knights of Sacred. There were more players dispatched from the Sacred Knights than the usual number, with around 48 lying on the ground. Of course, they were all characters of light.

Shin Nara looked at me with a grim expression.

“This is the fourth time.”

“The fourth time? Already?”

“Yes. A village in the southeast was annihilated two days ago. And almost every 12 hours… This one is estimated to have happened about three hours ago. Moreover, a similar incident occurred in Minis.”

I looked at Shin Nara with a momentarily stunned expression. It was then that I could understand why Shin Nara’s expression was not good. The annihilation of the village was also an unforgettable event for me.

“Faust? Could it be Bluebeard again~~ The strategy used by Bluebeard during the 2nd Interim Imperial War, utilizing chimeras and undead legions, causing chaos in the old continent.”

Didn’t Faust cross the Ocean of Dawn to the new continent while gathering attention from that incident? However, as Leeha listened to Shin Nara’s words, he hung his head.

“At first, I thought so too. But this time, there are no traces of monsters. In Minis, there is only one trace of a person—”

Shwaaaah-!

At that moment, a violet light flashed.

“Ah, you’re right. It matches exactly what the goddess said. Damn it.”

“L-Lark? How did you…”

Lark spoke to Shin Nara with a determined expression. When Leeha looked surprised, Lark also showed a stunned expression.

“Oh my, Leeha-ssi! It’s been a while since we met, and there’s no coffee but only a place with blood splattered everywhere. The atmosphere is like a beggar, very nice! Haha.”

Although Leeha still thought he was a strange person with an unpleasant tone and a cheerful atmosphere, now Leeha was more curious about why he was here. He alternated my gaze between Lark and Shin Nara.

Lark chuckled and spoke first, saying, “I am currently in a relationship with Dame Shin. This greeting is overdue-”

“Lark, please be precise!”

Shin Nara exclaimed, cutting him off abruptly.

Unbelievable! Leeha wanted to be surprised, but he couldn’t figure out how to react in such an odd atmosphere.

“Well, I can’t even make a joke. Still, a partnership is a relationship, right? It’s unofficial, but 『Minis-Fibiel Joint Investigation Team』! It’s also a form of social interaction, isn’t it?”

Lark shrugged, trying to lighten the mood.

“Similar incidents occurred in Minis as well. Villages of similar size and environment were targeted almost simultaneously. When we heard about it for the second time, even though it’s not our job, spreading rumors in the capital is not good for public safety, and the Capital Defense Corps requested support, so rather than being helpless… we decided to actively participate. With limited available personnel, it’s better to work together”, explained Shin Nara to Leeha, not even looking in Lark’s direction.

Finally, Leeha could understand.

“Indeed. Nara-ssi, you are amazing. There is a difference when you have a strong sense of justice.”

“Oh, come on.”

Even though incidents occurred within the country, it was not the responsibility of the Capital Defense Corps personnel from various countries. However, Lark and Shin Nara decided to exchange information on similar cases and try to solve this case using the limited forces of the Virtue Knights and the Sacred Knights.

“I am also remarkable for having the same thoughts and actions as Dame Shin, right?”

“Lark-ssi, please be quiet. So, what are the current results?”

It was evident from their expressions alone that they had not identified the perpetrator.

Moreover, the progress of the investigation was not as advanced as I expected.

“It might seem like a monster attack event, but it’s not”, answered Lark playfully, to which Shin Nara added with a sigh, “Initially, we suspected Faust. It’s not easy to achieve this alone. But there are no signs of chimeras or undead… It’s too intentional to be considered the work of Bluebeard.”

Lark and Shin Nara took turns replying, “In the end, we don’t know.”

“Well, it’s not like we know nothing. That’s why there’s a reason for calling Leeha-ssi.”

“What is it?”

Leeha asked Lark in a cautious tone, then glanced sadly at Shin Nara. She subtly avoided Leehas gaze. It was evident who had the idea to bring Leeha here in the first place.

(To be continued…)
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“We need Leeha’s dragon.”

“Dragon? Why? If we need a dragon, we already have Alexander.”

“But we need proper communication. I’ve told him several times that it’s a moment to uphold justice, but he hasn’t been responding. Will Leeha respond if asked? If not, we can call Alexander instead of the dragon.”

Leeha opened his friend’s window. Alexander’s location was private, but he was clearly online.

“Damn it. Anyway, concept lover!”

Did Leeha not receive Lark’s call because something bothersome had occurred? Yet at that moment, Leeha could understand Alexander’s mentality. When that kind of tone resounded, anyone would want to avoid it.

“Ah, alright. Let’s hear the reason then. Why suddenly the need for a dragon? Do we need a dragon to catch some troublemaker? You don’t even know who it is.”

“While we don’t know who the perpetrator is, there is a commonality among the ‘victims.'”

“Commonality?”

As Leeha chuckled, Lark took a step closer to him. Leeha met his gaze directly. Despite his mocking tone due to his abrasive personality, there was no denying his handsome face.

“The four villages destroyed in Fibiel. And the four villages attacked in Minis, all of them were villages of women.”

A fleeting sense of unease crossed Lark’s handsome face.

“The point is that therer are dragon lairs near the villages. And all the dragons in those lair areas have disappeared. There were no dragons in the lair areas. It’s as if they vanished in an instant. Poof, gone.”

At that moment, one word passed through Leeha’s mind.

“No way….”

“Is there something on your mind?”

*Gulp*

Leeha swallowed the name that was on the verge of slipping out. There was no need to create unnecessary confusion in the midst of uncertain information. However, if an individual had carried out such a significant event in a ‘very short time’, and the ‘dragons in the vicinity disappeared’, then that being possesses power beyond that of dragons. Besides Bluebeard, who else could it be?

Leeha thought of the name of a dragon he knew but had never seen.


“Tiamat?”

The queen of the chromatic dragons.

The six-headed dragon, Tiamat.

A warning was going off in Leeha’s head.

“Wh-what did she look like? Even if it was just one person. If there were any users, wouldn’t they have spread the word to someone they knew?”

“That’s exactly the problem.”

“Excuse me?”

“The fact that even those who saw her couldn’t properly describe her.”

Lark clicked his index finger back and forth. Leeha’s pupils dilated.

“… That’s absurd. It’s not even blue hair-”

“That’s why I said it’s a problem. It means someone that extraordinary appeared out of nowhere… Really, where could such a thing be hiding?”

Lark’s words were spot on.

That was the ‘problem’.

Leeha could also deduce that the level of the users swept away in the turmoil was not high. Even so, weren’t there a few users above level 150?

“Did those people not see clearly who attacked them, or who their neighbors were being attacked by?”

Watching Leeha’s serious expression, sinaara cautiously opened her mouth.

“There are not many useful testimonies. A very large figure, wearing something like a robe… and ‘swinging something huge like a dragon’s tail’…”

“A dragon’s tail?”

“Yes. Wrapped in a cloak and robe, there was something thick and long protruding between them.”

Shin Nara didn’t hesitate to call Leeha immediately, also supported by Lark’s suggestion for testimony.


Leeha didn’t hesitate anymore. At this level, whether it was Tiamat or not, it was a serious situation.

‘With Chiyou and Bluebeard alone being complicated…’

Leeha furrowed his brow, organizing his thoughts.

“If it turns out to be Tiamat… this isn’t something I can handle alone!”

Leeha immediately sent a confidential message to Blaugrunn.

Even Blaugrunn, who took the conversation seriously, eventually acknowledged that it wasn’t something he could handle just before entering the adult level. Blaugrunn: I’ve informed Lord.

Leeha: I’ll come over right away, so let’s meet on your end.

Blaugrunn: Yes, Leeha-nim. If the queen of the chromatic dragons caused the incident, then it should be the king of the metal dragons who finishes it.

“Nara, I’ll be back in a moment.”

“Yes. Please let me know what happened. I’d be happy to help.”

“It’s always best to lend a hand, isn’t it? It would be much easier with Ha Leeha around, don’t you think? Bang, bang with that rifle!”

“… Hmm, anyway.”

Meanwhile, watching Lark point his finger rifle at him, Leeha activated the teleportation scroll.

“Oh, by the way, I can vaguely guess where you’re going. Can’t I come along? Wasn’t it the last time that ‘Grandpa’ told me to get along with Ha Leeha? Did you forget?”

“Huh? Oh, no, I was about to activate it.”

Just from that brief chat and action, did he accurately deduce where Leeha was heading, even mentioning ‘Grandpa’, Bahamut’s human form? He could foresee the future just from my actions? The master of foresight through observation.

“Ha-ha, wanna go? Huh? Let me show you my readiness. I always carry around five spare teleportation crystals, you know, in case we need them! Let’s go, shall we?”

Seeing Lark approaching with a considerate expression while Leeha hesitated did not sit well with me.

“Ugh… but… I… I don’t want to go with you! I don’t like it! Just no! I hate it! Maybe one day, but not now. Shh!”

Leeha glanced at Lark for a moment, then simply activated the teleportation crystal.


“Hey, that’s cold.”

“But how does Lark know where Leeha is going or what he’s going to do? ‘Grandpa’?”

“You mentioned it before.”

“Me? What did I say?”

Shin Nara blinked, looking at Lark.

Lark tossed and caught an empty crystal and replied, “You and Ha Leeha are similar.”

“What… what are you talking about? When did I-”

“People who are alike have a way of understanding each other~ Let’s investigate quickly.”

Lark caught the crystal and turned away.

Shin Nara silently watched his back.

“… What will Lord think?”

Leeha unraveled everything he heard from Shin Nara and Lark in Bahamut’s Lair, wishing deep down that Bahamut would respond with something like, “Really? Let’s confirm it right away!”

However, Leeha already knew that Bahamut was not the type to act impulsively like that.

“I’m aware that two beings have disappeared. They were younglings who had just begun constructing Lair.”

“That’s right! According to our investigation, it was an Adult Gold Dragon and an Adult Brass Dragon-”

“Not much different from what humans are capable of.”

“How do you-”

“Well, you are a part of my clan. You may be a member of the human race, but to me, you are not just a human. Do you understand what I mean?”

Bahamut chuckled as he stroked his long beard.

Dragons in Middle Earth exist as entities between NPCs and monsters. Depending on how players handle them, they could become partners like Alexander, mentors like Ram Hwajung, or turn out as Bahamut described.

“Dragon Raid… damn it. Hunting dragons. Isn’t it essentially human to gather in groups and kill your own kind? From Bahamut’s perspective, such behavior was also part of the natural order and a common occurrence.

“If you can’t protect yourself, then don’t try to be independent.”

“But the dragons’ individualism doesn’t allow that either, right?”

It means that achieving success on your own and establishing a position is the top priority for young dragons.”

“So, are you just going to observe Tiamat’s movements?”

Despite attempting a hint of rebellion, Leeha’s words only filled the Lair with Bahamut’s laughter. Only after Blaugrunn closed his ears to the uproarious laughter, Bahamut spoke, looking at Leeha.

“If you weren’t my lineage, I would have wrung your neck! Didn’t you just say that the Chromatic Dragons fell victim as well?”

“Well, that’s true, but Tiamat is, uh, trying to regain her strength by sacrificing her followers-”

“She doesn’t need such futile actions. The moment she resurrects is when she regains all her power. Above all, if she is roaming the world… I cannot remain unaware.”

Tiamat is the queen of Chromatic Dragons. Thus, Bahamut thought that there was no way Tiamat could be behind the Chromatic Dragons’ demise. However, Leeha not only had simple speculations but also obtained concrete information.

“At the very least, I won’t miss the moment Tiamat awakens.”

It was Bahamut who would be the first to know among all living beings in Middle Earth. Calling for Alexander and others, including Leeha, would be his top priority… That moment would truly be when Tiamat awakens.

“Then who possibly did it?”

“A human.”

Bahamut replied in a deep voice.

“Human… Are there humans like that? Moreover, there are few who wield such thick weapons.”

At least someone who possesses the power equivalent to Bluebeard from Middle Earth users?

It was difficult for Leeha to sift that out from his experiences and information.

Kaztor’s name briefly came to mind, but that was it. If mixed with the magic of a Dark Elf, they might show an extraordinary speed, but their weapons and attack methods were different from his.

“It’s not magic. You can tell just by looking at the surrounding buildings covered in armor. There was an excessive amount of blood. It seemed as if someone had torn apart a human body.”

By the time Leeha arrived, they were already dead, so their blood had turned jet black.

But when they were being slaughtered, the entire town would have been painted a deep red.

“No matter it’s a game, even if it is, people usually don’t commit such cruel acts due to conscience… They are not monsters, so who would commit such acts?”

To the perplexed Leeha, Blaugrunn approached.

Just by looking at the young boy’s face, the intention was clear.

“That’s right. If we try searching for the lairs of the disappeared dragons, we might find something, right?”

“If you’re not going to do that, why did you call me here? Ugh… Then, lord, I will depart with Leeha now.”

“Oh, azernmart is thankful to you. He wanted me to convey that to you.”

“Azernmart?”

Just as the two were about to leave, Bahamut stopped them.

Blaugrunn laughed, nodding along to Bahamut’s words.

“I’ve met him once too. Maybe he’s better than that smart aleck.”

“Oh? Wait a minute. Could it be that! Ram Hwajung-ssi, no. The – Bluebeard, small human woman you’re talking about -”

“See for yourselves.”

Bahamut gestured interrupting Leeha’s words.

With a casual hand movement, the bodies of the two disappeared and were forcibly teleported to the rare of an adult class Gold Dragon.

Though the fact that it wasn’t Tiamat and that Ram Hwajung had met Bahamut injected a sense of urgency into Leeha, the situation was still perplexing.

“You may be a single family! It’s because you’re sometimes so mean.”

“But you must understand that Lord cannot go to places casually.”

“Hmm… The Chromatic Dragons, including Onyx, are not quiet about this, right?”

“Yes, Tiamat… If, if that comes out, I don’t know.”

Blaugrunn shuddered mentioning Tiamat.

Leeha was curious whether Blaugrunn had ever come across Tiamat or had any memories, but he didn’t ask.

(To be continued.)
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“Is this-”

“It’s Goldstaff’s lair. It hasn’t even been seven years since it became an adult-class…”

“Well, seven years, huh.”

It was said that Goldstaff was already an adult-class dragon by the time players started the game.

“Even after the Dragon Raid was successful, the number of dragons remained relatively the same. Their memories were being manipulated.”

Excluding dragons that disappeared through events or quests like Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, the memories of young dragons that players successfully hunted were often vague.

“Such a dragon never existed in the first place; it was a narrative that another dragon with a similar gender, species, and age to that dragon had just newly emerged and become independent, according to Alexander.”

It was only now that the statement made by Alexander about not needing to memorize the names of young dragons made sense.

If Goldstaff, the dragon, wasn’t part of a special event or quest, it would soon be reset in the memories of all dragons and recreated as a new gold dragon with a similar age and personality.

“Is there something?”

“No. Are you sure there’s really nothing?”

Leeha asked, surveying the interior of the lair while recalling the hierarchy of dragons.

From Blaugrunn to Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh, arzenmacht, and Bahamut. Even to Leeha, who had examined four dragon lairs, Goldstaff’s lair appearance seemed unmatched.

It wasn’t just because it had recently become an adult-class.

“Isn’t there at least some items, considering it’s a dragon lair…?”

“Well, it might seem like nothing in the blink of an eye, but they’ve probably collected things in their own way. Even Juvnile uses their parents’ items, but adults start collecting their own.”

“That’s right. Blaugrunn had a lot of items in his lair too.”

“Please don’t compare me to them! I’m just a little kid compared to them-”

“Huh? Who’s calling who a little kid?”


Blaugrunn shut his mouth as Leeha glared at him.

Seeing Blaugrunn’s puffed-up cheeks, Leeha felt an urge to tease him, but they maintained a serious demeanor for the time being.

“Since it’s easy to raid, the rewards wouldn’t be too shabby. But even if there weren’t many, there should be at least 10 heroic-grade items. There would have been gold, gems, and other jewels to some extent. Including various scrolls, there should be at least one or two scattered around here.

Yet, Goldstaff’s lair, an adult gold dragon of seven years, was literally empty.

Leeha immediately understood Lark’s words.

“Any traces of mana or something?”

“Wait a moment. Hmm…”, Blaugrunn immediately used mana detection. However, he soon shook his head.

“I can’t pinpoint anything right away. I do sense something very faintly, but it’s hard to catch exactly.”

“What is it?”

“I can’t quite catch it precisely. There seems to be something there, but it’s like they’ve covered their tracks with mana perfectly. Could it be stronger in this direction or that?”

Blaugrunn, like testing the waters, roamed around the rare interior following the flow of his mana detection. Since there were no signs or traces of any items around, there was no choice but to follow his lead.

With the dragon’s body needing to be maintained, the rare interior was quite spacious. True to the nature of the extravagant Gold Dragon, there were quite a few rooms.

The fact that not a single item was left in any room once again whetted his appetite.

“It’s this way… This way.”

“Oh, great. Great. It’s true that Blaugrunn is needed after all.”

“I can sense it now. Mana… This mana is-”

whoosh,

whoosh,

“Bait? What’s bait?”

At the sound that suddenly reached his ears, ihap listened closely. However, Blaugrunn was still silent.


As Blaugrunn’s expression stiffened, a sound echoed once again in Leeha’s mind.

whoosh,

whoosh,

“Alert? What, what is this? What’s this sound? An alarm?”

Alarm.

Chills ran down Leeha’s spine, but he quickly snapped back to attention. If it was an alarm, hadn’t he heard it before?

“The alarm from Bluebeard wasn’t like this. It was more of a ringing, jingling bell sound. So what’s this?”

As Leeha pondered the puzzling sound in his mind, Blaugrunn finally spoke.

“It’s a necromancer’s mana.”

“A necromancer?”

“If I remember correctly… it’s not a magic that summons zombies or skeletons, but a magic that turns corpses into undead beings.”

It took a moment for Blaugrunn to fully grasp the situation in order to understand. Nevertheless, he couldn’t comprehend it properly.

“… Are you trying to say that ‘Golshutaf, the gold dragon, became undead’?”

Blaugrunn nodded. ※ ※

“Th-this is nonsense! What are you talking about? Who? What crazy person would do such a thing?”

“I don’t know! It’s a magic that I can’t use, but- I still know about it! The mana energy is definitely female…”

Blaugrunn looked at Leeha with a face that even he couldn’t believe.

Leeha was equally dumbfounded. Even though it had only been 7 years since it reached adult level, the difference between Juvenail level and dimension was the growth of a dragon.

It was more of a transcendence, closer to evolution rather than the concept of growth.

“To even attempt raiding with just this adult dragon, you need at least 50 people that are at least at level 200. No, maybe even more. If the characteristics and strategies of the dragon are not properly shared… sometimes you might need over 125 members depending on the raid standards! But then, to feel only the undead transformation magic energy in the midst of no one else’s aura or any other magic energy?”


It was natural that Leeha couldn’t immediately accept it.

“Then, could you please turn off that alarm-like sound?”

“Alarm? What alarm?”

“I don’t know. It seems like some trap magic used in Gold Dragon’s Lair… making a buzzing noise.”

Leeha scratched its head and pointed to its temple. Blaugrunn looked at Leeha in that state for a moment.

“Hi-Leeha, as I mentioned earlier, I don’t feel ‘any aura of mana’ here. There’s no magic left by Golshutaf or anything.”

“What? Then what’s with this? It’s not a Bluebeard alarm either. Why do I have another alarm-”

The moment.

Leeha’s jaw dropped naturally.

An alarm?

It was there.

It was an alarm that had been acquired not long ago, something that Leeha couldn’t even imagine would be triggered for a while— one of the rewards received for the achievement: ‘Nightmare of the Setting Sun (S-)’. Not new skills like stat points or body buffs and debuffs, but a new ability.

An alarm function when vampires are nearby.

“What the hell! Undead, really!”

“What? What’s happening all of a sudden-”

“They say a fart turns into poop when it gathers! Those… no, it was them!”

In that moment, all the pieces of the puzzle clicked in Leeha’s mind.

“Faust?”

“Igor?”

“No, vampires? Are there monsters like that?”

“Chiyou is Bathory? Bluebeard’s Second in Command?”

“If it’s an undead dragon, could it be like a Bone Drake? No, Bone Drakes and dragons are different, so a Bone Dragon?”

In a small meeting room at the headquarters of the Sacred Knights of Sacred, Lark and Shin Nara took turns speaking, their strange synergy evident.

Watching the oddly well-matched pair, Leeha rubbed his chin.

“You won’t make me repeat everything after I’ve explained, right?”

“At the very least, it’s certain that a dragon named Golshutaf has been turned undead. Whether it’s in the form of a 『Bone Dragon』 or a 『Lich Dragon』, we can’t be sure…”

As if refusing to provide further explanation, blaugarun wrote sternly.

Despite the dignified posture and serious tone, it was still a soft voice, prompting Shin Nara to briefly flash a ‘motherly smile’ at Blaugarun.

“This is troublesome. When did those things cross over? We’re still on high alert near the mana transmission towers and warp gates…”

Kaztor’s manhunt was still ongoing.

Although the border forces had decreased compared to before, the main warp gate connecting the continents, as well as the general warp gates of each country, were being closely monitored.

Leeha chuckled as he listened to Lark’s complaints.

“You still don’t know Chiyou. Could they have come through the warp gate? There’s that man over there.”

“That man… Ah, yes, you mean the ninja. Can they hide not only themselves, but others too?”

“Ninja? How do you know?”

Shin Nara didn’t miss even the slightest clue Lark dropped.

Sasuke was one of the few individuals who had never shown themselves in official settings.

“Not to mention he was not a member of Byulcho or a user of Fibiel, the chance of Lark meeting with Sasuke is zero!”

“Oh, um… Well, you know how things can be. Anyway, what happened back then is in the past! Please don’t forget that I made a clear 『choice』 back then.”

The incidents involving the Paleos in the New Continent, the riots, and so on. They never properly asked and Lark never explained everything. They just understood each other implicitly and left it at that. And now, I didn’t have any intention of probing into that matter.

Seeing Lark flustered as usual made me want to comfort him, but there was no room for that now.

“I don’t know what you’re talking about, but please focus on the current issue! Handle one thing at a time!”

“Right, of course, Nara-ssi!”

When Shin Nara broke the tense atmosphere between Leeha and Lark, Lark quickly saluted her. Leeha chuckled softly as she organized the situation.

Chiyou still couldn’t connect. So, who orchestrated this? Leeha didn’t need to ponder separately; there was only one left. Blue beard.

Only him.

“At least one of them became a vampire. Maybe both. No, not just them.”

What happened to Yamato’s members? Can Bluebeard create vampires randomly, limitlessly? If so, Yamato’s outsiders would also have become vampires. And in great numbers.

“Moreover, there could be surviving vampires. Damn, I thought Arzenmacht and Blaugrunn killed them all… It was almost negligible. But were there others? Could there be a few more castles like that? If there were hundreds of vampires in a few more castles, that would be truly…?”

It was a nightmare. Leeha couldn’t dare to imagine further. It would make them seem so pitiful.

“First, let’s assume the worst-case scenario that Faust has five adult-level undead dragons. And… considering Chiyou’s side, or the possibility of vampires under Chiyou’s command, we should think about that, too.”

“But at least it was revealed that only one was responsible for destroying the village, so it shouldn’t be a group of that scale.”

“I agree with you, Nara-ssi! Igor and Faust. Or one of them is likely to be a vampire. If it’s one of them, the probability that Igor is the vampire is high.”

Leeha made an ‘Ah’ expression. It was when things she couldn’t think of alone were coming to light.

Even the best among users in terms of judgment, administrative skills, and reading comprehension were present here.

“Igor probably crossed the level 300 mark a long time ago. But with so many users close to level 200, it would have been impossible to hide him completely. In that respect, Ha Leeha-ssi mentioned that the ‘vampire’ Igor, with enhanced physical and magical abilities, is highly likely.”

“You mentioned Blaugrunn, right? Um, could a regular level 300 user – no, a human… turn an adult dragon into an undead?”

“It would be difficult.”

“Bingo! So, we should consider Faust as a vampire too. Realistically, the worst possible scenario would be vampire Igor, vampire Faust, and a cunning ninja, along with… five undead dragons.”

Alone, Leeha managed to plant the seeds of ideas that were difficult to unravel quickly, and they bore fruit in an instant.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha alternated between looking shocked at the two people.

“Why, why are you looking at me like that?”

“You must be amazed by my exceptional deducing skills. Or were you astounded by the couple of our unofficial ‘Minis-Fibiel Joint Investigation Team’?”

“Th-That! I told you not to use the word ‘couple’!”

“It’s a couple because there are two people. If there were three, it would be a triple! Four would be a quadruple! Isn’t that right?”

“Ugh, that mouth of yours!”

Shin Nara moved her hand swiftly. Normally, her antics would involve pulling out her precious sword and swinging it at Lark, but she merely tapped Lark on the shoulder this time.

Even after being hit, Lark still grinned as if he was pleased with himself.

Leeha sighed as he looked at them, then spoke.

“To be honest, I was slightly impressed, but that conversation ruined it all. Now, then… Based on the ‘worst-case’ scenario, what do we do?”

As Leeha quickly returned to reality, sinnara looked at him with a somewhat strange expression.

However, she was also a woman burdened with the duty of being part of Pibiel’s capital defense knights.

Soon, she shook her head and returned to reality as well.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, how powerful is the undead dragon?”

“First of all, we need to determine if it’s a 〈Bone Dragon〉 or a 〈Lich Dragon〉. The former merely uses its physical abilities, but the latter can also use magic to a certain extent. I’ve heard that a high-level caster can even reproduce the breath attack in the latter’s case.”

“A breath attack? That’s insane… How about control? Does it get harder with more dragons?”

“That also depends on the caster. A high-level necromancer can imbue undead dragons with their living intelligence and instincts, but a low-level necromancer would just have a gigantic dragon-shaped puppet.”

“Hmm, I get the feeling… but the situation isn’t getting better.”

If the realistic scenario was correct, at what level should Igor and Faust be considered?


‘They managed to raid an adult dragon together. Igor has enough speed and strength to wipe out a mid-sized town in under 20 minutes.’

If Faust is similar to Igor, his undead dragon would certainly not be weak.

“If we assume five undead dragons… wouldn’t Alexander just get overwhelmed? If five adult lich dragons are breathing fire, even Bailephus, despite being ancients, would find it hard to endure. And I’m supposed to stop that?”

With the expedition to the new continent nearing its end, it isn’t easy to draft knights or other forces.

Gathering users to block them?

Users of moderate skill levels are more likely to hinder rather than help.

In the end, the only option is to gather rankers.

But this isn’t a simple task and over-relying on rankers lately has been problematic.

It’s not only hard to gather players obsessed with leveling up, but they also have a fragmented contact system. Even if they are gathered, they must stand guard 24 hours a day to stop the attack, which isn’t easy.

More importantly, it’s unclear exactly ‘where’ to block.

“Then…”

“How do we…”

“Stop it…”

The three of them sighed deeply. On a night darkened by moonlight, two fluttering robes were looking at the city.

“Hehehe, is it here this time? What’s around here?”

“White dragon. It’s been 560 years since it became an adult.”

“Oho, the toughest one yet? Can you handle it? And you’ll have to do it alone this time.”

Igor looked at Faust and laughed. The fangs that hadn’t been visible between the giant’s lips now jutted out.

“It’s fine because ‘he’ is there. Besides, are you worried about me? You’re the one who has to handle a city this time, not just a village. The knight order there is on a different level from the security forces we’ve encountered so far.”

“Haha! I should ask you, are you worried about me? A mere knight order?”


Hearing Igor’s hearty voice, Faust also smiled. The teeth of the Lizardia were already sharp. But Faust’s two fangs looked remarkably different from what one would believe were mere lizard teeth. No, it wasn’t just a matter of his fangs.

The ‘pure-white’ appearance of Faust, the Lizardia, under the dim moonlight now had dark Brown spots resembling those of a leopard.

“Of course, I’m worried. Even with ‘him’, doing this alone means this dragon is going to be quite noisy. If we don’t resolve it in time, it will disrupt our plans. You know, those quick-witted ones might have already started investigating—”

“A lowly 9th rank and such insolent talk. Don’t worry. I’ll finish it in 25 minutes. The moment that gutless ninja locks the space, I’ll enter.”

“Once we clear this lair, we’ll have completed more than half our goal.”

“Ha ha ha, what a slow pace. Just ‘half’ with this?”

“What?”

When Faust looked over, Igor immediately shut his mouth.

He chastised himself for the excited slip of the tongue right before a battle, but fortunately, Faust didn’t press further.

Bwoooong…

A giant purple dome was formed over the distant city.

“Let’s go, berserker— no… 〈Bloodsucker8100054016〉.”

“Stop calling me by that unfamiliar name. It’s not cool at all.”

Igor pulled his robe’s hood tighter.

At the moment when all the muscles in his body tightened and contracted, Igor added one more thing.

“… I forgot your name. Was it Death-something? Let’s just go with lizard Head.”

“What? I’m—”

Before Faust could retort, Igor had already launched his body forward.

The city’s lights were barely visible in the distance. However, Igor’s figure was already out of sight.

How far had he leaped in a single bound?


Faust chuckled.

“Hmm… an ignorant giant. I am 〈The Bringer of Death0630800860〉.”

Faust turned and mumbled to himself.

Though it was something he would never normally do, at this moment, they didn’t lack the desire to ‘announce themselves.’

〈Bloodsucker〉 Igor.

〈Deathbringer〉 Faust.

They were among the few users across Middle Earth who had completed the rare 〈2nd job advancement〉.

“I can feel it, this scent, this fresh blood scent!”

Igor, even as a Berserker, had a number of self-buffs.

His regular movements, even as a 3rd ranker, were beyond the imagination of ordinary users. But what about now, after his 2nd job advancement?

Despite the massive spatial lockdown, the city was in the process of closing its gates and preparing for a sudden attack, but before the gates could even close, he had arrived at the city gate.

“Something is coming over there!”

“It could be related to the spatial lockdown! All units, prepare for—”

That was as far as they got.

The guards and five knights defending the city gates were sliced down in a single stroke. The unreal sight of their upper and lower halves separating simultaneously stunned even the users who were watching.

“What is that?”

“A monster? No, what kind of crazy monster would—”

The blood was shot straight at them. Not a single user could fend off the blood droplets that were launched ruthlessly, like bullets.

A literal ambush of blood!

The blood projectiles that penetrated the armor and shields pulled out more blood from within the victims’ bodies.

“Haha! This is it, this is what I wanted!”

Igor did not simply pass by the users.

Approaching the users who were staggered by the blood bullets in an instant, he swung his sword.

His greatsword, covered in countless saw blades, sprung out from his robe. A single hit was sufficient.

The users turned to light with an attack that felt less like being sliced and more like tearing apart.

“〈Blood Marble〉.”

Before the puddle of blood from the fallen could turn into light, Igor reformed it into blood marbles and scattered them at the surrounding users.

Blood calling forth blood, a bloody spectacle. It was a new style of combat for Igor as a Bloodsucker.

This was also why the buildings in the towns and places where the damage had occurred were excessively blood-stained.

It took merely 6 seconds for Igor to kill all the beings near the city gate, deal with the users and escapees, and start running down the main street.

In just 6 seconds, he had killed a total of 17 people.

Destroying a medium-sized town in merely about 10 minutes was not a difficult task for him.

“Break the spatial lockdown!”

“I can’t! It seems like it’s not locked with a normal scroll! A special scroll? Who would use such a high-grade item—”

“Damn it, who locked this!? What are we supposed to do!?”

“There— there! It’s coming! That— that’s coming!”

Within less than a minute, Igor, who killed nearly 50 people, started to provoke screams everywhere he moved.

They realized.

They could never escape from this place.

Alerting others that a being using blood was attacking Fiorenza City was the best they could do.

-Indiscriminate attack on Fiorenza City-

Igor’s supersonic speed did not even allow for that much.

Users trying to whisper while fleeing, the shop owners locking their doors – none of them could convey their own plight, nor what was happening in the city right now.

He is just one person.

No matter how fast his movements are, being confined to a single body means there are limits.

This was common sense.

That was until they saw Igor’s movements.

“This is ridiculous! How can he move so fast that we can’t even see him!?”

“It’s a bug! A bug, he’s a hacker! That guy’s a cheater!”

“Ka-ka, who’s calling me a cheater!?”

Slash—!

They couldn’t even catch a glimpse of the attacker.

A massive robe suddenly appeared before them, with blood-red eyes gleaming from within. Before the users could even recognize his appearance or comprehend his voice, their bodies were already split horizontally or vertically.

Since they were killed in a single strike, their nicknames didn’t appear in the alert window. Also, few remembered the voice of the 3rd-ranked player who had long sided with Chiyou and hidden his presence, which was another reason why this incident didn’t spread widely.

“Now, 5 minutes, very smooth. Extremely smooth. Ka-ka-ka!”

His combat was flawless, prioritizing quick-witted users, then the knight order forming ranks, and finally the trembling, helpless users. Igor’s methodical killing was perfect.

If not for those unseen eyes watching him.

’There’s another idiot standing over there! With that tall stature, he’ll be satisfying to slice!’

On the rooftop of a building in a corner of the city, someone was watching Igor. Without delay, Igor launched himself towards that person.

The initial distance was closed in an instant, and Igor swung his sword without a word.

Screeeech…!

“Hmph?!”

He was momentarily taken aback by the massive resonant sound.

Until now, not a single person had blocked Igor’s sword as he traveled to the ninth village!

“So, it’s like that.”

“Who are you?”

Igor growled, baring his fangs.

“84 counts of public property damage, sabotage in 5 locations, an unspeakable number of murders… You are identified as a heinous criminal threatening the national interests of Minis.”

The user on the rooftop pulled down their hood.

A distorted face of Cheka shone from there.

“I am arresting you in the act, Igor.”

“Who? Who will?”

Swish—!

Igor wasn’t someone to be intimidated by a no-name secret police.

A massive cross slash from right to left!

As Igor’s saw-toothed sword swung, Cheka immediately took a guard stance. Igor couldn’t help but smile.

“You think you can block my sword with just your arm!? You must be utterly insane!”

(To be continued…)
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Screeech…!

Again, only a frictional noise resounded. Igor pulled his sword back.

Rippp!

Cheka’s cloak was torn, revealing his forearm.

It was, of course, not bare skin.

“A tonfa…? Were you hiding that all along?”

“It’s my preferred weapon.”

What encased his forearm and was gripped in his hand was a tonfa.

A short staff with a perpendicular handle, integrating both offense and defense.

The fact that it could block Igor’s sword was enough to prove its value.

“Certainly… it’s good for stalling time. But if you want to arrest someone, you need to catch them first.”

Igor didn’t know Cheka’s name, but he had already calculated how Cheka fought and what outcomes his fighting style would bring.

“What?”

“I mean I’m not interested in just killing you alone! Ka-ka-ka! Catch me if you can!”

Whoosh—!

He leaped away immediately.

Five users gathered nearby, thinking Cheka was stopping Igor and trying to record it, were cut in half in an instant.

Cheka’s expression twisted.

“You damn criminal— Stop!”


Cheka also jumped down from the second-floor rooftop to the ground.

The most gruesome game of ‘catch me if you can’ in the world started in Fiorenza City.

“Get out of the way!”

“He’s coming this way, move, move!”

“Ahhh, don’t push!”

The mere momentum of Igor charging through the streets turned them into chaos. The vague hope that they might escape if they ran far enough was shattered before they could take three steps.

“Ka-ha-ha-ha!”

Igor’s robe was completely drenched in blood.

He licked the blood droplets off his face, gaining buffs that increased his health recovery rate and movement speed.

“It was good as a Berserker, but this is the pinnacle!”

Swoosh…

“Oh! Quite fast, but such a weapon won’t stop me!”

Igor swung his sword towards the approaching sound from behind. Again, the loud sound of friction resounded.

“Cheka… Igor!”

Even without seeing, the 3rd ranker had become a greater monster who could sense distance through hearing and smell alone.

“What, asking me for a quick and painless death?”

“You should know that you have the right to remain silent and that you don’t have to say anything?”

“What? What kind of nonsense is this!?”

Igor swung his sword once more.

Cheka dodged without blocking with his tonfa.


Even with a close shave that left his clothes slightly torn, Cheka didn’t stop speaking.

“Anything you say may be used against you in court?”

“Ha! Do you think you’re a cop? Miranda rights?”

Igor laughed and glanced at Cheka.

Mana particles were swirling into Cheka’s body.

It felt unsettling, but at the same time, it fired up Igor’s competitive spirit.

“Without any coercion or promise of reward, are you willing to answer my questions of your own free will?”

“If I do? What can you even do?”

As Igor simultaneously slashed three nearby users, flinging their blood at another fleeing user, Cheka smiled.

It was a slight upward twitch at the corner of his mouth, but on his usually emotionless face, it was an expression of emotion.

“Fine. 〈Emergency Arrest〉—”

“A skill? 〈Blood Hurricane〉!”

Whoooooosh—!

Igor swung his sword.

The distance should have been impossible to bridge.

But blood droplets carried by the sword wind formed into a small tornado, shooting towards Cheka. It seemed like there was no weakness for the 〈Bloodsucker〉 who had acquired a fierce long-range attack skill as well.

“〈Shadow Capture〉.”

The flying blood hurricane evaporated instantly. At the same time, Igor felt his body become heavy as if weighed down by thousands of pounds.

『Abnormal Status: Restrained』

『Movement speed decreased by 40%.』


『Attack speed decreased by 40%.』

『Debuff: In flagrante delicto state.』

『When resisting a user or entity possessing investigative authority, overall attack and defense decrease by 30%.』

『Effect persists until the user or entity possessing investigative authority dies.』

『Target User: Cheka』

“Restrained? In flagrante delicto? What kind of wordplay is this? This kind of job—”

“It exists. In Middle Earth.”

Schwing.

Cheka closed the distance with Igor in an instant.

There was hardly any difference in speed compared to before.

However, compared to just a moment ago, when he felt sluggish, Igor’s overall responses had significantly slowed down.

“What the—”

Wham!

Cheka gripped the tonfa in both hands like police batons and began to swing them.

Each hit targeted critical points, making the attacks anything but trivial.

Most notably, when Cheka attacked Igor, his defense decreased by 30%, making each impact feel significantly heavier, even when blocked with his saw-blade sword.

“It certainly is optimal for stalling time! But you can’t kill me with just that!”

“That’s true.”

“What?”

“But that is also true.”

Igor used a skill targeting Cheka.

If his attack power was reduced by 30% against Cheka, he would simply enhance his sword.

The saw-blade sword coated in blood now looked even more menacing.

Swoosh—!

The swing of his sword was almost invisible to the surrounding users.

“Yeah, keep spouting your nonsense and die!”

The space ahead of Igor turned crimson, like red paint splashed everywhere.

“Didn’t you say it yourself?”

Cheka was not at the end of that attack. Unlike before, he had significantly increased the distance between himself and Igor.

“It’s the best for stalling.”

Igor quickly understood his true intention.

A user who had been chasing him without letting go suddenly increasing distance?

“… I see. Stalling. You were aiming for this?”

Two figures emerged from the shadows, approaching Cheka.

“Wow, rank 3 doing such dirty work, this is too much no matter what.”

“Igor! We will end your crimes in Pibiel and Minis now!”

“Kekeke… The 〈Rainbow Knight〉 and that Pibiel female knight. You think just the three of you can stop me?”

Cheka’s ploy from start to finish was simple—to buy time for reinforcements capable of stopping Igor.

“Well, strictly speaking, it’s not just the three of us. We brought some knights from our orders. Can you handle all of us?”

Lark, sinnara, and twenty knights from the Berthuer and Sacred orders arrived in Fiorenza City.

-We’ve arrived! It’s really just Igor alone… but is Haishah going to be okay? Maybe we should’ve gone over there?

-Don’t worry about me! Is this the correct way to the white dragon’s lair?

-I’m holding Minis’ position secure. Don’t worry and don’t die.

As Igor growled, Leeha was approaching the white dragon’s lair.

-Stop jinxing it. Just make sure you don’t put Nara in danger.

-I know better than you about that! See you later; if possible, alive.

‘Geez, so ominous to the end. That unnecessary comment—’

“Leeha-nim! Over there!”

As Leeha chuckled, a massive burst of fire shot skyward.

It wasn’t far.

“A breath attack!? Blaugrunn-ssi, quickly! Transform into your dragon form!”

“Understood!”

Woosh—–!

Blaugrunn immediately transformed into a dragon, grasping Leeha in his hand and taking to the skies.

Whose dragon could have launched that breath attack?

Leeha’s mind was a whirl of thoughts.

『For a Lizardia weak to mana to attempt such a thing, who are you?』

“Adults are known to be the most talkative. 〈Wrath of the Dead〉.”

『Do you think such a curse can bind my wings!』

“Alone, no… But now?”

Faust shrugged his shoulders.

A darker-than-night shadow poured from the pure-white Lizardia towards the white dragon. The white dragon swiftly attempted to ascend and evade, but five falling masses prevented its escape.

“Be gone, specters! Though I pity you, unrested dead, I cannot recognize you as kin! Hmmm—!”

The white dragon unleashed its breath. A frigid breath akin to that of a Silver Dragon shot out instantly.

It was blocked by the smallest Bone Dragon at the forefront, taking the full brunt of the icy breath. While one Bone Dragon bore the brunt, the intent was clear to quickly reroute the other dragons around to overpower the white dragon.

“Bonehead, even being a Dragon doesn’t mean you understand affinities… Ice on a creature of bone? Melt it down, go—Aaargh!”

If it hadn’t been for the unexpected impact from behind. Faust staggered as the flight of the dragons immediately slowed. Only one dragon kept moving as before, but it wasn’t enough for an effective combo action. The white dragon shook off the one dragon’s pursuit and flew away.

“Bone Shield vanished? Suddenly what is—”

Then a gunshot sound followed. He hastily picked up a bony wand and cast a spell.

“B-Bone Shield!”

Bones scattered around gathered once more to protect Faust. It was a defensive magic designed to protect against any potential dragon attacks, but now it unexpectedly blocked the sniper’s shot!

“Faust—!”

“Haishah… you’ve already found out all of this? Eh?”

Haishah’s voice made him feel as if his blood ran cold. But he also felt his blood boiling with rage.

“Blaugrunn, Blaugrunn-ssi, you should throw me over there where Faust is!”

Blaugrunn, in his true dragon form, holding a caster Bronz Dragon, wasn’t likely to mistake Haishah’s intentions.

“Isn’t it kind of convenient, considering if there are Lich Dragons. The distance… probably a master succeeded in turning a weak dragon into a lich. The rest of the dragons were only able to be made into bone… but even that will make them difficult to deal with.”

If just the size was compared, the five adult-class dragons were larger than Blaugrunn, and among them was a Lich Dragon capable of skillfully wielding magic and its breath.

“So, Blaugrunn-ssi, please just buy some time by cooperating with that White one. In the meantime…”

Leeha swiftly changed the magazine of his weapon.

There was only one ultimate, best, and quickest way to resolve this battle.

“I’ll kill Faust as quickly as possible.”

To assassinate the caster controlling all undead dragons.

Blaugrunn fully understood Leeha’s plan.

“Got it. Whites are known as the least intelligent colors, but… not so much that they can’t understand the current circumstances. Besides, that Lich Dragon is something I need to handle myself.”

“Eh? Why?”

“Yes, Gustav here. Take care then!”

Blaugrunn’s face crumpled a bit.

Maybe worried that Leeha would recognize his expression, blaugrun fulfilled his request as intended. Literally, he threw Leeha with all his might.

“Aaaargh, throw me gently! Jellypong! Prepare to land, and 〈Soul Link〉!”

With a giant red flash, Leeha landed on the ground.

“I can do it. As long as Faust doesn’t run away—”

With the mobility afforded by Koma and Jellypong, Leeha couldn’t lose. Although the title ‘Shadow Hitman’ was active, Leeha’s firepower was like Black Mamba—a single bullet could blow away a Bone Shield.

Even though his attack power would diminish a bit now, if he combined multishot bullets, he was confident in destroying any of Faust’s defensive skills in one go.

Leeha increased his speed rapidly. He was only about 16 meters away from Faust.

(To be continued…)
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“I am the Bronze of the metal dragon Clan, Blaugrunn! What is your name, white?”

Blaugrunn shouted as he fired a lightning spell towards the two bone dragons.

Dodging the breath of the dragon Rich16 of the Gold Dragon, white Dragon replied, “Are you siding with them too, metal?”

Blaugrunn wanted to hold his head in frustration but couldn’t because of the two bone dragons attacking furiously.

“The rumor that White is stupid seems to be correct.”

“What!?”

“Is your brain completely gone? Even after seeing me now – are you asking such questions? 『『Electric Chain』』, 『『Chain Lightning』』!”

Zap!

Lightning chains and chain lightning shot out towards the two bone dragons attempting a combo attack.

“Ahh!”

“Whoa, whoa-!”

The lightning chains that bind and immobilize the targets hit both bone dragons!

Then, the subsequent Chain Lightning continued to deal damage, alternately targeting the two bone dragons that couldn’t move in the air.

“Um, I am a white dragon of the Chromatic Dragon Clan, blancophul! I will lend you even a bit of my strength!”

The white dragon, blancophul, shouted with a furrowed brow.

Blaugrunn looked at him momentarily with a perplexed expression.

The animosity between the Chromatic Dragons and the Metal Dragons was a natural setting, but it didn’t feel good to hear such a response from someone who was supposed to help.

“Bronze Dragon… Blaugrunn…”

After passing the two bone dragons suffering from lightning magic, Blaugrunn turned towards Blancophul. The white dragon wasn’t his target. It was someone who reacted to his name, the being chasing after white dragon.


“I… Goldstaff! I will bring peace to you!”

The target was the Gold Dragon who had turned into a lich.

Although Blaugrunn, a Juvenile-class, who looked young and smaller compared to Goldstaff, an Adult-class, the comparison was only based on the present! Considering the age factor as well, Blaugrunn was by no means inferior to the upper ranks of the Adult-class.

“My mind is clear, my body is refreshed… I am already at peace, Blaugrunn.”

“Are you willing to sacrifice the pride of our clan to the undead?”

Goldstaff, who was chasing Blancophul, turned towards Blaugrunn without hesitation.

Blaugrunn was momentarily taken aback by the confrontation with Goldstaff. This was because an immense amount of mana was gathering within the body of the Gold Dragon at an astonishing speed.”

『Lich Dragon Thunder Spear…』

“Argh, ignition Burst! Damn it! Has your concentration improved?”

Blaugrunn hastily soaked his wings and rose into the sky. Although he used instant magic to disrupt the casting, Goldstaff endured the pain and cast the spell.

Moreover, the magic Goldstaff used was Ignition Burst!

It was a fairly powerful superior-level fire magic that Bailephus once used towards Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh’sh. 『Using such magic near my lair! Metal really has no manners! Ice Fog, ice Blast!』

As Ignition Burst continued to crush Thunder Spear, the white dragon completed his magic hastily.

However, there was a significant difference in the gathered mana.

Kugugu…!

Despite using three different spells, ignition Burst completely incinerated the area within a 4-kilometer radius.

“Leeha!?”

Despite Blaugrunn’s worried shout, there was no response.

“Blancophul! Let’s lure them a bit outward for now! We’ll gain the upper hand if we delay them!”

“To whom are you giving orders, metal! And why should I believe that delaying will benefit us…?”


“If I say to do it, then shut up and follow! Thunder Spear, thunder Spear!”

Blaugrunn launched Thunder Spears towards the charging Bone Dragons.

If Goldstaff were not there right behind him, handling the two Bone Dragons would have been easy, which was regrettable. However, at the moment, there was no room for such thoughts.

Blaugrunn increased his speed even more.

Blancophul, too, followed closely behind the Bone Dragons, swiftly beginning evasive maneuvers.

Even with two dragons, it was difficult to endure… of course, that was due to Blaugrunn not yet reaching adult level, the difference in opponents’ ranks, and Goldstaff who had become a Lich Dragon and significantly boosted his abilities.

Blaugrunn: It is estimated that the Necromancer’s abilities are considerable, Leeha! First, we will lure them out to prevent the damage from spreading. But it might be difficult to endure for more than 20 minutes.

Blaugrunn whispered to Leeha and flew towards an uninhabited land, indifferent even if a wide-scale magic was cast. However, despite the sound of dragons flapping their wings, Goldstaff and Blancophul casting spells, there was no sign of a response from Leeha.

Blaugrunn: Leeha?

Blaugrunn turned his head, but there was no sign of Leeha who had disappeared into the nearby forest. It had been about ten minutes since Leeha was thrown away.

The biggest reason Leeha couldn’t respond to Blaughloon’s words was simply because she had no spare time.

“Hehehe… That boasting rifle of yours—” Twang…!

“—There’s no other way.”

Faust smiled, baring his fangs.

At first, Leeha thought it would be a fierce battle when facing Faust. She also thought she could easily defeat Faust.

“Summoning undead was expected.”

Leeha was confident dealing with bone and lich dragons if he cut off the source! Koma was still fighting the undead horde.

However, the undead Faust conjured this time were on a different level compared to the shoddy undead creatures of the past.

*Kraaah—*!

Koma’s claws deflected an incoming sword, but another sword stabbed from the side, making it inevitable for him to flinch.


“Aaargh!”

Even when he managed to pull away, there were more undead in that position, and not just a few but a significant number, far surpassing what had been summoned in the past.

The difference was that while in the past, it was just skeletons and zombies, now it included ghouls, draugrs, and even a Death Knight.

“And what’s that, a Death Knight with full armor?”

A perfect knight’s body clad in armor, but the only light shining from beneath the eyeless skull was a blue goblin fire.

The undead knights, death Knight, and the headless warriors they led closed in, with Koma struggling to even use her strength properly.

“Was 『Dark Promotion』 that powerful? Moreover, Faust… Faust, 『Curve Shot』!”

As soon as Leeha detected the angle towards Faust, he endured the mana cost and used the skill again.

It was a whip-like bullet that curved from the upper left to the lower right, but Faust jumped back to evade it as if he had been waiting for that shot from the start.

“Darn! How can a necromancer—”

There was no skill to predict attacks, nor was there any knowledge to dodge them after seeing the attack. But how was this possible? Including the bullets Leeha had used upon meeting Faust and the current Curve Shot, he had already spent 2,400 mana. It was no wonder he was getting more anxious, with Faust still not revealing his body movements and secrets.

“If I concentrate the soft points on mind, it’ll increase to 110… But if I can’t figure out Faust’s body movements and secrets, it’s useless.”

How can a necromancer exhibit faster agility than a physical dealer?

It was reasonable to predict Igor becoming faster as a vampire, but Faust too?

“An increase in magical abilities, an increase in physical abilities… Okay, let’s say that’s possible. But… Isn’t this going overboard?!”

Beep beep~

Beep beep beep~

The alarm ringing in his head was bothering him greatly.

“I only wanted to get the white dragon… but now I ended up with a fine specimen I never even wanted. It would be a waste to turn it into a zombie or a skeleton… Maybe I should just let it live? Hehehe.”

Faust chuckled as he ran his finger down his body.

The one who was trying to summon a terror spirit had to swallow his words again. Because of the Bone Shield, he couldn’t even summon the terror spirit.

“Even the defense for 『Curve Shot』 extends to the terror spirit. Damn it!”

Unlike in the past when Bone Shield only defended in one direction, now it covered his whole body like layers of armor, almost like an ‘egg’.

The terror spirit’s power only activates when it is seen.

So, by enveloping his whole body like that for defense, there was a high chance that the spirit’s ability wouldn’t manifest. That’s why he was looking for a different opportunity.

First, destroy the Bone Shield, and second, use the terror spirit when Faust reveals himself.

“If that doesn’t work, should I just run?”

As he considered this, something sparkled in the far distance at the edge of his sight.

“B-Blaugrunn?! Why are you here!?”

『Leeha-nim!』

The Bronze Dragon has the ability to accurately assess the situation his partner is in. Blaugrunn was flying towards him at full speed. Greenish orbs were gathering around his mouth.

Leeha: What about the dragons!?

Blaugrunn: Once we go a certain distance, the control limits become apparent. Among the rules he set, ‘Kill the white dragon. Nothing else matters.’

Leeha: No, but! If that white dragon dies, our plan is-

Blaugrunn: What are you talking about? I told you, if we kill the caster and controller first, everything will be over!

Blaugrunn’s shout made Leeha feel sheepish. In the end, Blaugrunn took a risky gamble knowing Leeha couldn’t handle Faust alone with brute force.

“Tsk, this is really embarrassing. But now that it’s come to this… it’s clear that it’s helpful.”

Above all… Leeha was overjoyed at the presence of a partner who understood his situation better than anyone else and was rushing to his aid.

“Alright, let’s take them out in one go! Koma, step back!”

『Understood!』

Blaugrunn’s chest swelled with pride.

“Damn it, a dragon is showing up out of the blue! Hurry, gather around here, my minions! 『Soul Barrier』!”

Crackle—!

With Jellypong, Leeha moved his body backward.

The lightning breath that Blaugrunn unleashed at full power was blinding to the point where even closing one’s eyes did nothing, and the roar was disorienting enough to shake one’s eardrums.

“Boom!”

“Wow!”

The one who was about to protect Koma couldn’t help but be momentarily speechless as he opened his eyes to the scene before him.

Despite it being a forest full of fir trees, the trees that were there just moments ago had disappeared without a trace. All that was visible was a massive crater as if a meteorite had just struck.

In the center of the crater that was so massive it seemed as though a meteor had fallen, only a few undead creatures managed to maintain their forms under Faust’s shield that was cracked and split, and a few stragglers huddled under his umbrella.

“Alright! Jellypong! Approach at full speed! Kidd, go and wipe out those leftovers!”

“Raaaah!”

Komq, who hadn’t been able to rampage until now against the Death Knights and draugrs, burst forward like a deluge.

After glancing briefly at Blaugrunn who was returning from his faraway encirclement, Faust moved.

“Now, the Death Knights won’t be able to hold back for much long—”

『Soul Bring』, my fan club members. Expel the souls tainted by injustice! And all Death Knights, catch the dragons. 『Ghost Puppets Summon』.”

“What?!”

Faust wasn’t staying silent either. His combat style had changed from the past when he only dealt with skeleton-based and zombie-based entities to now being able to manipulate spirits of the undead as well.

Koma was a summon that can temporarily reveal a form through the fusion of the advanced fire spirit Ignis and the soul of a fire bear. What if they were to return the soul of the fire bear in this situation?

“That crazy bastard?!”

Faust never neglected his research. Above all, wasn’t he one of the top-ranked necromancers in Middle Earth?

“Crrok, craaaah!”

Koma swung wildly at the translucent entities approaching him, but his burning claws only sliced through the air, lacking the impact to eliminate them.

(To be continued…)”
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“K-Koma!”

“Hehe, as expected. Go, death Knights. Dullahan, block my path, 『Bone Shield』.”

The ghostly horses summoned by Faust each lifted their riders into the air and galloped through the void.

The number of surviving Death Knights was around five!

“No way!”

“I agree. 『Chain Lightning』!”

Leeha and Blaugrunn targeted the ascending Death Knights. Although these creatures were resistant to magic, they couldn’t withstand Leeha’s physical blows.

In the moment their movements were slowed by Chain Lightning, Leeha’s bullets sliced through them, disintegrating the undead.

After eradicating the Death Knights with successive gunfire, Leeha ordered Koma to step back.

As Koma faltered, his figure blurred.

“We can’t send Koma back yet. There are still Dullahan knights left. We have to take them down.”

Even Leeha’s bullets had little effect. Though the bullets pierced their bodies, the souls regenerated, rendering the attacks futile.

“Damn it, should I use a flamethrower? Dealing with a necromancer alone is this difficult-”

“Are you okay, bronze?”

At that moment, a distant roar cut through the sky. Five shimmering dots appeared from the direction Blaugrunn had flown from.

“I’ll handle my part. Losing face in front of a guest would be disgraceful!”

“Huh? Could it be…”

“… That foolish White dragon…”

Who is trying to save someone and has come here?


Yet, even before the White dragon’s mouth, mana orbs had gathered clearly.

With a single frost breath. Leeha planned for the next opportunity the moment that came to mind.

Leeha thought of summoning the terror spirits once the Bone Shield freezes over and Faust stops in horror!

Without even looking at the entrance of the white dragon, Faust recognized its arrival. He was always the first to sense his dragons when they enter his control range.

“Go back, blancophul! Protecting yourself comes first!”

“You think I, a white dragon, can be taken down by a mere skeleton like them, Blaugrunn!”

Even though the white dragon shouted confidently, his flight seemed far from relaxed to onlookers.

“What’s this? Just being chased over here? Damn it, why are Chromatic Dragons so weak-”

At that moment, something flashed through Leeha’s mind.

Blancophul was an adult-class dragon. Why was he weaker than Blaugrunn, who lingered at the Juvenile-class, a weaker branch among the Chromatic Dragons?

“Ughhhhhhh!”

『The Aura of Dragon Slayer – Ancient Dragon』 Description: The aura of having slain an Ancient-class dragon can be felt by all dragons, regardless of their Metal or Color lineage. Whether it be a brave adult, a curious juvenile, or a clueless hatchling, if you adopt a hostile stance, they can’t help but yield to your dominance. You are a dragon slayer of the Ancient class.

Effect: Overall abilities of hostile Adult-class dragons decreased by 40%. Overall abilities of hostile Juvenile-class dragons decreased by 50%. Overall abilities of hostile Hatchling-class dragons decreased by 60%.

It was because he existed in that place.

Wasn’t their relationship with the Chromatic Dragon lineage still negative, that is, 『hostile』?

At the same time, Leeha could discern another fact.

Did Faust’s movements suddenly get faster?

“It’s not just because of the aura of the vampire. The reason his movements have sped up… Faust noticed it as soon as Leeha appeared. It was rather foolish of Leeha, the one who provided the cause, to realize it late.”

『Achievement: Nightmare at Sunset (S-)』 Reward: 21 stat points Alarm function when a vampire is nearby Vampire’s movement and attack speed +20% in battle with a vampire

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Nightmare at Sunset』.


Effect: 42 stat points Vampire’s movement and attack speed +409% in battle with a vampire

From the moment he met Leeha, Faust’s agility had increased by about 60%.

To realize that now!

But as this was his first official battle with a vampire, and Leeha was abruptly pulled out in the middle of a meeting, it was difficult to prepare for it.

“Damn it! White dragon, move aside!”

Leeha growled, raising the rifle.

Blancophul, flying towards him, furrowed his brows for a moment at Leeha’s sudden action, but at least the dragon’s instincts worked perfectly.

The moment Leeha pulled the trigger, blancophul rolled to evade.

And behind him, a chilling scream echoed, “Aaaaaah!”

The skull of the dragon following closely behind the white dragon shattered into pieces.

“Phew! Use your breath on the bone shield, dragon!”

“Do not command, unfortunate dragon slayer! Even without your words, it was the right thing to do!”

“Jellypong, Koma, step back!”

As soon as Blancophul opened his mouth, Leeha distanced himself once again. In Faust’s hidden gaze, there was no reaction.

Crack!

The dragon breath froze the bone shield froze along with undead need it.

“It was great! 『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”

Right now is the chance!

Due to Dullahan’s remaining number not even reaching twenty, he was in perfect condition.

4,000 bullets of Multi-Warhead Shot, a total of 40 shots, were fired towards Faust all at once.


The bone shield with the defense of ice shards crumbled the moment it was hit by the first bullet.

Simultaneously, the distinctive continuous roar of Multi-Warhead Shot resonated, and countless ice fragments sparkled in the moonlight in the air.

“I caught- … it?”

Leeha trying to strike a victory pose felt puzzled.

Despite clearly seeing the Bone Shield shattered into pieces, no achievement alert rang out.

Instead, what echoed in their ears was a dreadful scream.

『Kwaaaaah…!』

“Oy”

『B, blancophul!』

In the brief moment that Blaugrunn, who was watching Faust and Leeha on the ground, missed, everything happened in the blink of an eye.

“Krr-hehe, thank you. Ha Leeha. Grab the white dragon, Goldstaff.”

『Yes… Master.』

Blancophul was being held by Goldstaff.

However, what entered Leeha’s eyes was not the Gold Dragon that was entangled with the white dragon Blancophul.

A small figure perched on top of Blancophul’s head.

Clearly, it was Faust. Only, it was not the familiar white lizard form that Leeha knew.

But now was not the time to be concerned with how he looked. The moment he noticed the black energy emitting from Faust entering Blancophul’s head, there was nothing else visible to Leeha’s eyes.

Immediately opening the character window and investing some points into the mind stat, shouting until his throat was sore as soon as the crosshair aligned was the most urgent thing to do.

“Blaugrunn-ssi, close your eyes! 『Terror Spirit: Summon』!”

Shwaaaaaaaa…!

Summoning the terror spirit that would terrify even the surrounding dragons!

The uncanny being that sprang from Leeha’s chest locked eyes with Faust and his enemies, including Leeha.

“It’s great, shoot, the moment Faust stops!”

Leeha grasped his rifle and pulled, and Blancophul assumed a knee-hugging posture, shaking, was out of the question. With even the possibility of the white dragon fainting, Leeha had to aim precisely for the moment of the fall. It had to be aimed directly above the white dragon’s skull, ensuring no harm would come to the white dragon… 『Grrr…!』 Blancophul finally plummeted alongside the terminal. Leeha had already been thinking about and aiming for that exact spot. He pulled the trigger.

The bullet grazed narrowly over Blancophul’s head. There was no one there.

“What the…?”

Faust was floating in the air with levitation magic.

“Fhaha, hehehahat! I almost said something unnecessary. Thanks for the help, Ha Leeha! Subduing the target is essential in creating the 『Lich Dragon』!”

“Why, though?”

“Kill him, Goldstaff!”

As Goldstaff, turned into a Lich Dragon, he swiftly approached the falling Blancophul. 『No!』

Blaugrunn hurriedly flew over, but the distance versus similar flight speed made it too late. Leeha regained his senses at Blaugrunn’s shout and fired bullets towards Goldstaff. But the Lich Dragon didn’t stop. Although there were moments when his movements faltered as the bullets hit, the gravitational acceleration propelled him relentlessly towards his target.

“Damn it, die, die!”

“If, if this continues, blancophul’s Dragon Heart—”

“Stop, you undead monster!”

He put all his might into pulling the trigger. But that didn’t make the bullets any stronger. Marked by the bullets hitting, the sharp claws of the Lich Dragon’s black smoke dripping, were on the verge of penetrating Blancophul’s chest. 『Ah, aahh-』 “Urggh!”

The bursting light was enough to blind Leeha’s eyes.

“Fuhahahat! This time, victory is mine! No, our victory will continue!”

With his arm raised, covering his eyes, Leeha heard Faust’s distant shout.

Unlike his usual tone, his voice, rich with laughter and excitement, was enough to turn Leeha’s insides upside down. Revenge? That is something to consider when facing an enemy.

“… This can’t be happening.”

When the light disappeared, the only things left in the space that Faust had teleported from were the two slightly injured Dullahan. Leeha and Blaugrunn had rushed in and killed the bone dragons, leaving behind only a few Death Knights and taking anothe “Lich Dragon” that Faust had acquired.

Considering this a trade, it was no exaggeration to say that they suffered a massive loss.

***

Aaaahhhh…!

There was a ground tremor strong enough for the person standing there to feel it, but the movement of the one causing the vibration did not stop.

“Kakaka, where did that initial zeal go? Ahhh.”

“You swung like that and your arm doesn’t even hurt? What a cheat.”

“Be careful, Lark-ssi!”

“-Ugh!”

Whirrr!

Lark twisted his neck like a turtle as he passed by a saw-like blade, grazing his hair.

There was no delay in Igor’s attack, and his movements did not slow down in the slightest.

“It’s unexpected. I thought I had caught up a lot though!”

“Don’t I have the Shin Nara-ssi with me? According to Cheka, there should be debuffs -”

“To make such moves while under restraint…? Unless I die, the emergency arrest effect won’t wear off.”

Since Nara was sharing information with Lark and Cheka, Igor’s condition was known to all three of them.

With Igor’s speed and attack speed debuffed, the calculation had already been made that they could subdue Igor with a joint attack from the three of them. However, once the battle began, the results did not go as planned.

“The more you fight, the stronger he gets. It’s a loss to keep clashing swords for a long time. I have to throw my body, even if I have to endure the damage, to subdue him.”

Shin Nara gripped the handle of her sword. The thought of subduing Igor without shedding blood and breaking bones filled her mind.

Lark glanced briefly at Shin Nara’s state. Since Cheka mainly protected the nearby players or the NPCs, the ones who primarily clashed swords with Igor were Shin Nara and Lark. They could roughly guess as they had faced Igor with many swords.

Igor was getting stronger the more he fought, and Lark had been observing the situation from a while ago. Therefore, he needed to stop her before she intervened.

“Does he get stronger by sucking others’ blood, not even being a mosquito larva? Where’s the rule that allows that?”

“Haha, are you displeased?”

“It’s not displeasure. It’s just annoying when my guess turns out to be right. Isn’t that right, dame?”

Lark shrugged and looked at Shin Nara.

(To be continued…)
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As Shin Nara dashed forward using her skills, she once again adjusted her stance. It wasn’t like the berserker from the past. Unlike the days when he only used his blood, now he had learned to utilize the blood of others as well. If that was the case, what would happen if the ability to absorb blood differed based on the level of others? Shin Nara’s plan to give skin and take bones would turn out to be a highly appreciated tactic by Igor.

“Oh my, oh my. You call yourself the Rainbow Knight. Turns out you’re just using your head. The title of Knight is too good for you. Just being a dog suits you.”

Igor gritted his teeth as Shin Nara’s attitude changed again. He realized that he had been deceived by Lark’s words. It was truly remarkable how she could unravel people’s minds and extract information.

“At this rate, we won’t be able to end the fight. But even so, Lark’s mind didn’t stop working. Should I eventually leave it to Leeha? Defeat the necromancer on that side and join forces… Wait? That’s annoying!”

Facing Igor’s attacks where complete evasion and defense were impossible, delaying the time would eventually put them at a disadvantage. They needed to find a way to turn the tables.

“Dame Shin, please stall time.”

“Time? How long?”

“20 seconds is enough.”

In the end, Lark decided to go all-in with a single blow. As he focused his strength while holding his sword, sin Nara took a step forward. Seeing her posture trying to protect Lark, Igor chuckled.

“What do you think you can do now? If it were just you, Knight, you wouldn’t even be able to grab my belt. You must want to hold on desperately, but hey! Kaka kaka!”

“Ridiculous.”

“I agree. Thanks to you, my eyes are burning with excitement. Please, dame Shin!”

Although there was a provocation nature contained in his words, there was no user who couldn’t understand the underlying sexism present.

Sparks didn’t only jump from Lark’s eyes.

“Red Line.”

“Where?!”

As sparks began to jump from his sword, Igor charged towards Shin Nara.

“That won’t do! Concentration Reinforcement!”

Shin Nara also didn’t stop. She didn’t need to find a way kill Igor. But what if she just defended? Possible!


The clear sound, like pouring into a glass, resonated.

“Ka-hat?! What is this? A trick?”

Igor was momentarily taken aback. Unlike a typical sword, his own weapon was made up of thousands of blades with varying curves and lengths. Not to mention that every single sword was coated, making it impossible to find any specific aspect or point, how did Shin Nara exactly manage to block Igor’s sword?

“It’s an established skill.”

She had developed a level of concentration where she could count the wing beats of a flying fly. Shin Nara precisely visualized Igor’s stance, the weight of the sword, and its center, even drawing the shape of the sword dipped in coated blood in her mind, accurately blocking Igor’s attacks without exerting much force.

Of course, it was only possible for a short while while the skill was active.

“Interesting skill. A woman should appreciate skills. If I had skills, it would be quite nice.”

“Don’t talk nonsense-”

『Blood Drain』.”

“-Ack!”

Having exchanged words with Shin Nara, Igor immediately used his skill.

It was a skill that pulled in spilled blood, acting as Bloodsucker, assisting in handling blood more efficiently.

However, what happens when you use it on a ‘specific individual’?

The blood coursing through Shin Nara’s body had no choice but to head towards Igor, and as the blood inside her body surged, Shin Nara’s physical self would inevitably follow suit.

“Shin Nara!”

Cheka rushed forward in alarm, but Igor’s movements were even faster. Since they were in a standoff, even a slight faltering in Shin Nara’s posture would reveal a definite weakness.

With one step, one swing of the sword, it would be enough to cut through Shin Nara’s body.

“Kakaka! Ranker achievements are sweet! 『Bloodsow』!”

“Inii – you won’t die-”

Shin Nara resisted with all her might, but Igor paid her no mind. The sawtooth sword coated in blood began to move like a chainsaw. It was clear that the cutting force would be several times stronger than simply swinging it.


“Let’s see if you die or not!”

As Cheka raised the axe and sprinted at full speed, at the moment Igor swung his sword,

A voice came from behind Shin Nara.

“You can’t do that! Nara-ssi!”

Whooaaaah!

The sawtooth sword, spinning like a chainsaw, collided with something green.

Like a weak twig against a chainsaw, the mass covered in vines was cleaved in half in an instant.

The corners of Igor’s mouth slightly lifted.

But it wasn’t a smirk of triumph.

“… A brat without any achievements.”

It was the derisive smile of someone watching something foolish. That was all.

“Cough… L-Lark, Lark-ssi!”

『Rainbow Knight』!”

It was Lark, not Shin Nara, who got cut by the sawblade of blood.

Despite jumping in to protect Shin Nara along with 『Green Embrace』, it wasn’t enough to stop Igor’s increased cutting power, and as a result, he found himself fully exposed to the damage as well.

“Get lost, you police brat!”

*Gasp!*

With just one swift attack, Cheka had to pull back his arm.

He knew that if he didn’t, his entire forearm would be cut off by Igor’s.

Smiling at Cheka’s distorted expression, igore spoke.


Killing Cheka to release the debuffs and abnormal status would make it easier to kill Shin Nara and Lark. The Giant Bloodsucker, who had already incapacitated Lark, immediately shifted his target to Cheka. Meanwhile, Shin Nara knelt beside the fallen Lark on the ground.

“Are you okay? Potion! Drink the potion quickly!”

Frantically, Shin Nara poured the potion over Lark’s wound and brought the bottle to his lips.

“Lady… in front of me… this expression… cough!”

“What??”

Cutting from his side to just short of his navel, it seemed like a level of injury from which recovery would be impossible, but fortunately, Lark’s stamina exceeded the norm.

“It hurts like hell…”

Despite coughing up blood, the knight managed to joke with a smile.

Shin Nara had to go through several changes of expression while looking at him.

“How can you joke like this now – what – why did you do that!”

How can you joke in this situation? Stop talking nonsense.

And why did you do that?

Even with the effects of the potion, Lark’s healing was slow.

Due to the special effect of 『Blood Soak』, the healing rate of wounds was drastically reduced.

With a still pale face, Lark quietly said to Shin Nara while looking at her.

“As I said… we are…”

“What??”

“… A couple, that’s why… took the hit.”

Shin Nara stared at the vomiting Lark blankly. What did that mean? If that statement was true, what was the meaning behind everything Lark had said so far?

“Lark!”

Shin Nara called out Lark’s name desperately. His eyes, half-closed, opened wide.

“I’m not dead yet… First, help… Cheka…”

“Y-Yes, yes, okay!”

Shin Nara followed his instructions, feeling puzzled. As they watched him regain his strength and raise his voice once again, she also seemed to be invigorated.

“You, Igor!”

Moments before the fire ignited on the sword of Shin Nara, Igor’s expression twisted.

“Oh, well. I’d love to play a bit more, but it seems time is running out. Let’s meet again next time. I’ll make sure to drain all your blood then, you scoundrels.”

“Where are you going!” 『Bang-thud』!

Before a Sonic Boom could occur from the ultra-high-speed thrust, Igor’s body had already vanished. Strictly speaking, since his voice still lingered, it wasn’t teleportation. Moreover, the light blue dome, spatial lock, was still active.

“What? Igor? Igor!”

Through the vampire skill Fogging, Shin Nara was unaware that Igor had disappeared.

While Shin Nara stabbed into empty space searching for Igor, Cheka approached Lark.

“Is the Rainbow Knight alright!?”

“I, huff, it’s fine. What about the village? No, about Leeha!? Please check on that first. We need to know the outcome.”

“Understood. Then-”

Shwack, at that moment, the spatial lock was lifted.

As soon as it released, a blinding light emanated from them.

“Igor!”

“Leeha-ssi!? What happened?

What about over there? The Dragon? Faust?”

Lark grabbed his side and managed to rise to a sitting position.

Although he was still in a state where he needed to gulp down a potion, he understood that the results were more important than his own condition.

“… I’m sorry. I missed it.”

And Leeha’s expression darkened. The burden of disappointing their expectations weighed heavily on his heart.

“You missed it? You, missed that? You missed something like a necromancer? Even if you had holes in your body, you should’ve gone twelve more feet – cursing, the like of it?! To go with the dragons and all-”

“What about the dragon. What about the white dragon?”

“T-that’s right! What about the white dragon, high Sir?”

“That…”

Leeha couldn’t bring himself to say any more.

“Leeha-nim~…”

Only Blaugrunn, who had witnessed the entire situation through Leeha’s eyes, couldn’t blame him.

Lark and Cheka had to deal with the aftermath of Fiorenza City, while Leeha and Shin Nara compiled additional details about Faust and Igor’s distinctive features and skills. The fact that they had prevented the city’s destruction was somewhat comforting.

After the sun had set, they gathered again and began sharing information.

The most significant piece of information Leeha had uncovered was a potential aspect that might play a big role in a future assault on Faust.

“This bonding thing…”

“It’s a method of merging souls together.”

As they listened to Blaugrunn’s explanation, Lark, Shin Nara, and Cheka all had slightly perplexed expressions.

It was something none of the three could fully comprehend.

“It was vague, but I definitely heard it, Possession. Now Faust can not only summon the undead, but it seems he can also summon the souls of the dead.”

His sigh deepened.

“As such… it’s entirely possible to imbue souls into one’s own body as well.”

“So, are you saying he has become stronger?”

“Not in terms of how much he has strengthened.”

He let out another sigh. Why did Blaugrunn have to stop at that critical moment?

Using 『Terror Spirit: Summon』 means that one must freeze all enemies except for oneself and one’s allies.

Resistance – beyond the state of undead. It’s the most definitive proof of Faust using Possession.

Even the Bone Dragon, let alone the Lich Dragon, was not dominated by the terror spirit.

Blaugrunn referred to it as a state of resistance beyond that of the higher undead.

For those who are already dead, there is no longer any such thing as fear. It seemed like an obvious statement. But what about Faust?

Why summon those who are not dead?

Right there, the deduction by Leeha and Blaugrunn began, with the conclusion that Faust had utilized the skill 『Possession』 to undeadify himself.

“I managed to defeat one Bone Dragon, but one Lich Dragon has increased…”

“The other side has two Lich Dragons and three Bone Dragons, it seems.”

“Igor’s strength also underestimated the information. If they were together, we would all be dead.”

Listening to Lark and Shin Nara’s story, Cheka quickly organized the situation.

No one could refute it. In reality, they rushed into battle in a manner dictated by the enemy, and the consequences of being unprepared were painful.

“What’s more serious is that I feel it would be difficult for me to engage with them in combat. Depending on the situation, I might just have to retreat.”

“Huh? Why, Leeha?”

“Uh, right. Did you forget about the one failure?”

“Don’t rile him up at times like this, Lark. And there’s no need to talk like that… It’s not about enthusiasm.”

“Heh, heh! Then?”

Lark asked quickly, looking embarrassed. It was an intention to provoke anger in the enthusiastic opponent to bring them back into battle, but Leeha saw through it in an instant.

The reason Leeha felt it would be difficult to participate in combat was not simply because of one failure.

“When I’m there, they become stronger. Both movement speed and attack speed increase by 60%.”

“Really? 60%?”

“… This is insane. If it were raised by over 60% from Igor’s final state-”

“Igor alone would be able to kill all of us.”

Cheka quickly organized the situation once again. No one could refute that statement either.

(To be continued…)
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It may not be just Igor, but Faust alone could potentially kill everyone here.

Having reached the state where they can use the breath of the Gold Dragon and the white dragon, they also have three other dragons simply for physical impact or defense against bullets.

If we consider Death Knights as well, coupled with Leeha’s presence enhancing his physical abilities significantly?

“We don’t have many choices.”

In the grim atmosphere, Leeha spoke up again.

“The first option is to find and kill them in broad daylight. At least now that it’s confirmed that they are vampires, they wouldn’t be able to move recklessly during the day.”

“As Leeha mentioned earlier, they will turn to stone, right?”

“Yes. Even though they are users, they might not turn to stone, but they won’t be able to move around during the day or may suffer debuff penalties.”

“Well, if that doesn’t work, we’re all dead. Lucky us.”

Lark sighed.

Killing them in broad daylight may be one way, but it would be challenging to do so on a vast continent without any information.

“What’s the second option?”

Cheka also understood that point. After glancing at the secret police for a moment, Leeha spoke again.

“The second option is to gather our strength and exterminate them. Even if we have to mobilize all available forces.”

“Who… do we call upon? The NPC Knights we took to face Igor have lost six people. After a while, they just withdrew and focused on protecting the remaining NPCs.”

“Yes, we shouldn’t call upon the NPC.”

“If not, then…”

Shin Nara couldn’t continue. Leeha gnashed his teeth. The outcome was not good, but at least they had gained a lot of information. Their speculations about the enemy were moving in the right direction.

“Their skills have changed, and their physical prowess has been enhanced. It might not just be a coincidence. We should also consider the possibility of a Second Advancement. Inheriting the power of a vampire.”


“I’ve been thinking about that possibility as well. And… the only way to confront a Second Advancement is with another Second Advancement… I had also come to that conclusion.”

Lark also agreed with Leeha’s words, and the two of them shared the same thoughts about a ‘companion’.

“Alexander.”

“And the Holy Knight.”

Both Second Advancers and ranked number one. And those who had undergone a Second Advancement and possessed great power against demons.

Leeha gritted his teeth. It was not enough to simply call upon Alexander and Kijung.

“Cheka, please ask the boundary of Minis from Leeha-ssi. Please be especially careful near the location where the Adult Dragon Raid takes place.”

“Of course.”

“And what about Nara-ssi-”

“Yes. Don’t get too excited. The Sacred Knights have already been dispatched. Contact will be immediate.”

The exact intentions of Igor and Faust were still unclear.

However, their goal was as clear as day. Wasn’t it obvious that they intend to get the dragons in their grasp? If so, there was no other way but to deploy defensive forces to protect the dragons.

“Okay, regarding the defense… Then, what about Leeha? Are you just going to keep hesitating even after seeing this?”

“I don’t want to keep hesitating.”

Even during the meeting, Leeha was constantly reconsidering his thoughts.

“I’ll try taking action for now.”

“Action?”

When Lark looked at him, Leeha unintentionally made a grim expression.

“I’m not the type to risk my life for revenge, but… I’m feeling quite irritated this time, so I think I need to give them a taste of their own medicine.”

They understood their top priority. They also knew where to defend. So, it could be said that what they should do was also clear. To put a bullet between Faust and Igor’s eyebrows.


“Wait and see. I’ll definitely do it for you!”

Leeha gently stroked Black Bass. ※ ※

Two days passed without Igor and Faust showing up.

The dominant opinion was that once they were exposed, they would also carefully proceed with the plan.

“We know the level of reinforcement troops we can call, so we’ll be cautious. If Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Pyo go out, even if those two are remarkable, we won’t be able to rest easy, right…?”

The worries lingered. There’s a saying that ten hands can’t stop a thief, isn’t there?

Moreover, from the perspective of the top rankers, waiting endlessly for those two without any guarantee was a significant issue. Therefore, although they asked for immediate response when calling for a hunt… it was doubtful if the timing would be right.

In that context, it could be said that Igor and Faust’s strategy was excellent. However, they were also well aware that Leeha had numerous connections with the top rankers, hoping that this fact would be a restraint for them.

Leeha himself didn’t want to just wait for them endlessly. The task at hand was clear.

“Bottleneck-ssi!”

The time that Bottleneck had asked for from Leeha was rapidly approaching. The sound of hammers echoing in the blacksmith shop suddenly erupted.

“Hey, hey! He’s here! He’s here! Beard Brothers! Close the door, we’re done with business today!”

“Got it!”

“Hehe, synthesis, huh. Seeing chin hairs and all, this must be a first!”

“Yeah, look at that. It was a good idea to follow our boss, right?”

The dwarves swiftly moved, closing the doors of the blacksmith shop. Bottleneck, as if already prepared, led Leeha into the space where the white rifle of the White Reaper were displayed.

“Wow… They look pretty good, don’t they?”

Gone was the rusty appearance of the guns from before. Looking at the neatly arranged ‘White Reaper’, Leeha also felt all worries dissipate.

Stroking his beard, Bottleneck jovially explained, gesturing with his hands and feet, “It’s all good. The calculations are perfect. Extracted some features from Black Bass, injected them into these guns, then just need to pull the trigger to blend the two mana!”

“The trigger?”


“The mechanism, the mechanism! Just need to create the trigger! A trigger for synthesis, precisely with this hammer!”

The hammer passed down from Bottleneck’s ancestors through generations. Leeha once again remembered the power of that hammer.

‘Come to think of it, they said they succeeded in processing the Legendary Moonlight… something or other, right? Indeed. Did they need two Legendary items and a Legendary tool for it?’

With that, all preparations were complete.

Leeha took a deep breath and carefully handed Black Bass to Bottleneck.

“Alright, I’ll get ready then.”

Bottleneck removed the magazine, completely disassembled the inserted bullets, and meticulously began to fill the chamber. Watching his skilled hands, Leeha felt fortunate to have become closer to Bottleneck, acknowledging it as the best luck for himself.

He soon arranged the two guns horizontally, one above and the other below.

The muzzle of Black Bass on top to the left, and the muzzle of the Divine Messenger below to the right.

As if intertwined, as if staring at each other, he took out the hammer.

“Are you ready?”

Shwaaaah…!

In front of Leeha’s eyes appeared a holographic window.

『Item Synthesis』

Description: The hero blacksmith Bottleneck is attempting to synthesize two items in your possession.

Content: Item Synthesis

Synthesis Target 1: Legendary Black Bass, enhanced by the power of lava

Synthesis Target 2: White Reaper’ legendary inner mana-forged barrel

Reward: ?

Failure conditions: ?

In the event of failure: ?

– Will you accept?

The failure conditions, penalties for failure, and rewards were all hidden behind a simple confirmation window! At this point, Leeha had nothing to hide anymore.

“I believe in you, Bottleneck-ssi!”

Leeha exclaimed loudly, pressing the accept button.

“Please do it!”

“Got it! Ganda taaag!”

Bottleneck raised the hammer with force. His tense expression, unseen before now, was spreading throughout the workshop. The Beard Brothers and other dwarves were so focused that even Leeha was gaping at Bottleneck’s every move.

“Synthesis!”

Bottleneck shouted at the top of his lungs as he brought the hammer down towards the center of the Barlog where Black Bass and Moshinar River faced each other!

Taaaang!

“Alright, whether it’s the 2nd advancement or setting sail! With this, we can strike down Faust and Igor’s Achilles’ heel!”

The entire table shook with a deep rumble. Leeha stared wide-eyed at the spot in question. However, despite the table’s vibrations, there was no visible change in the rifle.

Expecting a flashy effect or a rearrangement of firearms, Leeha was left dumbfounded.

“Um… Bottleneck-ssi?”

Leeha cautiously raised his head to Bottleneck, but he remained silent.

“What’s going on—uh, Bo-Bottleneck-ssi!? Are you okay?”

It was only then that Leeha noticed the disappearance of the dark haze in Bottleneck’s pupils.

Seeing the dwarf now with white eyes like a Prea, Leeha and the Beard Brothers panicked.

“Boss! Boss!”

“Water! Fetch cold water!”

“The boss has lost it!”

“Bo-Bottleneck-ssi! Wait, what about my rifle? How is this rifle—argh!”

Paaahhhh—shhh!

Suddenly, a light emanated from the tip of the hammer, enveloping the interior of Bottleneck’s smithy.

“What’s this—out of nowhere—”

“This is it! This is synthesis!”

“Is this it?”

Leeha, with closed eyes, heard the Beard Brothers’ exclamation. Bright light bursting so intensely it could pierce through closed eyelids! What a positively charged aura!

A smile of realization could not help but spread on Leeha’s face.

“Whoa!”

“Whoa! The light, the light is fluctuating!”

“What, what!?”

“How did it- I can’t see! What happened, Bottleneck-ssi!?”

Despite the light piercing their eyes, the dwarves and Leeha exerted all their efforts to see the outcome.

Until the light disappeared, the results were not visible. Only Bottleneck, who swung the hammer, could feel the clear result.

“Haaah….”

By the time Bottleneck’s long sigh filled the room, the light had vanished. Leeha and the other dwarves could finally inspect the table. There was only one rifle on the table. And in the same state as before, exuding its graceful figure, was Black Bass.

“…But why does it look the same?”

Leeha blurted out in confusion, but Bottleneck did not respond. He simply stared blankly at his hammer. Leeha, without waiting for an explanation, immediately grabbed Black Bass. Surely, the item description would show the result of the synthesis!

“It’s up….?”

“What?”

Leeha, who was about to check the item description, suddenly looked at Bottleneck, who had opened his mouth. Once hailed as the greatest weapon blacksmith in Hell’s Anvil, Bottleneck was trembling.

It was the greatest expression of joy that a dwarf could show, unable to contain excitement and exhilaration.

“What do you mean it’s up?”

Bam-!

At that moment, a cacophony of notifications and various alert windows started popping up in Leeha’s mind.

『Synthesis has failed.』

『The item will disappear as a result of the synthesis failure.』

『The sacred weapon from the legend of the White Reaper has vanished.』

『The target of synthesis has gained the experience of synthesis failure.』

『The grade of the target of synthesis has increased.』

“What is happening? What is this? Bottleneck-ssi! What is-”

“My… my skill has increased.”

Leeha stared at Bottleneck with a bewildered expression.

Even the party in question seemed puzzled, leaving Leeha unsure of where to start questioning.

So, from the White Reaper’s purification potion to Leeha’s painstakingly sought-after rifle synthesis attempt, it all ended in failure?

Furthermore, gaining the experience of failure and an increase in grade for the target of synthesis?! There was no visible change in Leeha’s body. Not to mention Bottleneck’s strange manner of speaking!

It was clear to Leeha. Bottleneck’s grade had increased.

“What is… what is this-! Give me back my rifle- I waited for today without even logging out in order to seek revenge on Igor and Faust. I waited, believing that rifle synthesis was the only answer. No wonder Leeha’s screams echoed through the forge without end for a while.”

(To be continued…)
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Leeha gazed at Bottleneck with a puzzled expression, his eyes wide open as if he still couldn’t believe what had happened.

“The Mosin-Nagant – it’s gone. The White Reaper’s Mosin-Nagant… What’s going on? I even checked it five times just in case… There doesn’t seem to be any additional effect on the Black Bass. Even though Mosin-Nagant disappeared and Black Bass looks the same… my expectations weren’t completely dashed. After all, mosin-Nagant’s attack power wasn’t lower than Black Bass’s anyway. So there was one effect that I hoped would be transferred from Mosin-Nagant.”

“Transforming into the surroundings for more than 5 seconds… In other words, an infinite camouflage! What? What’s going on with that?”

Leeha checked Black Bass multiple times in suspicion.

Nothing had changed. He even checked the number of quests for Black Bass, and it was the same. The seal remained at 『7』, and there wasn’t a single change in attack power, range, or anything else.

“Sir, what’s going on? Please explain!”

“Eh, uh! What?”

“Stop with the meaningless sounds! What exactly is going on? You said it would be combined! You said it only needed a legendary item! But why is Black Bass still the same!”

Most importantly… Bottleneck, what’s up with your level up?

What does it mean that your skill increased for attempting the synthesis? Leeha found it most absurd. It was a moment that resounded with achievement along with failure.

『Achievement: Ardent supporter of the God of the Anvil (S)』

Congratulations!

You have exerted all your resources to support the God of the Anvil and his disciple! Thanks to you, another disciple can strive for the reenactment of a legend. The God of the Anvil is pleased! Perhaps when the blacksmith you sponsor can handle all the materials in mythology, the God of the Anvil may descend to commend you personally.

Reward: Strength +15, stamina +10, absolute trust of the sponsored blacksmith of the God of the Anvil

You are the first registrant of the achievement.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effects will be applied. Effect: Strength +30, stamina +20

A remarkable S-grade achievement!

However, Leeha’s expression did not brighten as he rechecked the achievement window.

‘Just… this? If you use the expression “putting all your resources into it.” then the achievement acquisition condition is ‘when a legendary item is destroyed due to synthesis’… The cost is just the – ‘recognition in the Hall of Fame, totaling strength 45 and stamina 30.


A tremendous figure.

‘Yes, it’s a tremendous figure, but… oh, 75 stat points are essential for melee combatants, a tremendous figure indeed. If it’s simply a calculation of stat points based on level, wouldn’t it be an increase of up to 15 levels?’

“Argh! I’m not happy at all! Give me stat points instead. Who cares about trust.”

Leeha couldn’t stop grumbling.

After all, the sponsored blacksmith is none other than Bottleneck. Who else would have brought the dwarf working in Hell’s Anvil to the Gaza City and given him the position of Chief Engineer? It seemed that there was already a sufficient level of trust between Leeha and Bottleneck.

In such a state, absolute trust?

“Bottleneck-ssi.”

“I heard you. At the moment I struck the hammer, I heard the voice of Black Bass. No, it seemed like I even saw the appearance of Black Bass.”

“What?”

Bottleneck slowly regained consciousness as his eyes opened.

‘I definitely heard it’, he murmured.

‘What did the White Reaper’s rifle? Where is the rifle?’

‘Black Bass has definitely said it’, I replied.

‘The… the rifle of White Reaper, how is it?’

‘It was definitely a real rifle’, Bottleneck replied, hitting his chest deliberately. The situation was so absurd that he was left speechless. What…

‘The food this guy ate, it was… Black Bass’s rifle!’

Bottleneck rushed towards Leeha dancing, and grabbed his hand, dancing excitedly.

“Thank you, my lord! This was it! The missing piece we needed was that! I now have the qualification to follow my ancestors’ footsteps!”

“Ugh! Why are you so excited! Stop jumping around! My rifle is missing!”

“Yes, I know! But don’t worry, don’t worry!”


Bottleneck stopped dancing abruptly, smiling gleefully. Leeha shook his head as even the other dwarves around Bottleneck looked at their boss, questioning his sanity. A dwarf who couldn’t control his emotions, stared at Leeha seriously.

“I will sacrifice my life to provide assistance as needed, my lord.”

His voice was solemn, committing his life to Bottleneck’s cause. And to reciprocate that, he made an effort.

“No, so my rifle went missing, and you want to upgrade Black Bass instead!?”

Bottleneck had been running around frantically for a while, then he abruptly led Leeha outside the blacksmith’s shop, saying he had something to try out.

“Wait a moment! That’s my item! You have to return it even if I entrusted it to you!”

“Wait, that’s not important right now! Come back in a few days! I’ll have it ready by then! Here’s a rifle! Seems like my lord doesn’t understand what I’m saying!”

“No, because Bottleneck here doesn’t understand a word I say -!”

Baaang!

The door to the blacksmith’s workshop slammed shut.

“But this is my city….”

Being thrown out by a tenant upon the city lord’s arrival in the city! To add insult to injury, being stripped (?) of weapons by that very tenant left Leeha feeling nothing but unjustly treated.

“Sigh… Am I really going to miss the chance to upgrade Black Bass?”

Leeha sat dejectedly in front of the blacksmith’s workshop door. When will I have the chance to touch a legendary rifle again? Will such an opportunity even present itself?

“Am I destined to stick with Black Bass until the end? Seriously, did he have to ‘crack’ like that? Are you kidding me!”

Anger surged through Leeha as he gripped the rifle. Crackling over a rifle subject?

Then, out of curiosity, Leeha wondered, “Wait a minute. If it’s ‘truly alive’ enough to require food…”

Moreover, Jellypong didn’t require food. The only creature Leeha had seen that needed food was a Koma. Koma ate bits of Leeha’s cooking and only witnessed it eating.

“Does that mean it can be awakened? Transform into something like Jellypong, capable of communication…. Could this be a clue for a quest?”

Suddenly, one possibility crossed Leeha’s mind. The sealing quest of Black Bass.


“What happens if all the seals are released? Does it transform into a different form?”

If unlocking the sixth and seventh quests not only grants two additional skills but transforms Black Bass upon acquiring all seven skills?

In a fleeting moment of bright anticipation in Leeha’s eyes, the spark vanished.

“Well, it’s just a mental victory… A 5,000 meter snipe shot is something I have to practice somehow, targeting monsters above level 300, but where can I find them. Maybe in the far eastern part of the new continent? No, more importantly, I can’t even use a 5,000 meter snipe shot now.”

『Black Bass’s Seal-6』

Objective: Catch a level 300 or higher monster from a distance of 5,000 meters or more (0/1)

“Sigh, in the end, it means I can’t obsess over the quest right away. So, I have to face either Igor or Faust in my current state… That’s challenging. There’s only one thing left to do then.”

Leeha pulled out a teleport scroll. He would have to inquire from Bottleneck about the state of Black Bass and that too in a few days.

With no weapon at hand, what could Leeha, now defenseless, do?

“I can’t end it like this. How can I let this opportunity slip away like that!”

And then, he activated the teleport scroll.

Swooosh…!

He found himself back in the cabin of the White Reaper. Leeha’s thoughts had changed just like when he first arrived here.

“Surely the White Reaper must have some achievements. He wouldn’t have brought someone all the way here who even had to resort to using the White Plague Potion, only to give them a rifle just like that. Middle Earth wouldn’t be so sloppy.”

After tossing the keyword “synthesis” at the back of his mind, Leeha nonchalantly dismissed it. If that wass the case, there must be something to see. Considering Middle Earth’s actions so far, there must be something here without a doubt.

Something very important that he hadn’t discovered yet!

He couldn’t shake off the thought that through the massive “bait” of the White Reaper’s legend, there must be something within the Secret Cabin that Middle Earth was hiding.

It was a sort of intuition or insight that only someone who had been deceived by Middle Earth countless times could possess.

Shaaaah!

As Leeha searched for the White Reaper’s journal and his information, a faint white light briefly appeared behind him before vanishing, but he didn’t feel it at all.

It looked like a pair of wings.

***

“Bring it out.”

Ram Hwajung nodded her head. With her wand in her right hand and her left hand supporting it, she raised it as if in a proper casting stance, her expression more serious than ever.

“The Abyss is…”

“Dark.”

Paaaaah-…

Mana particles were gathering around her wand. They weren’t the usual sky-blue particles. In between the blue ones were hidden black particles. Arzenmacht studied them intently before speaking again.

“Only for assistance?”

The mana storm grew faster and stronger. Ram Hwajung couldn’t even properly open her mouth. Her arms, as unsteady as a broken reed, struggled to even hold the wand, her whole body trembling.

“Anywhere you want?”

Arzenmacht asked once more. Ram Hwajung looked at him standing opposite her.

As the mana storm whipped her blue hair in all directions, she finally managed to speak.

“No, also cold.”

Poooooof——-!

At that moment, all the mana particles around Ram Hwajung’s wand that had been gathering suddenly turned green.

Arzenmacht raised his voice.

“Use it!”

『Ice of the Abyss Night: Lump』 Whoosh!

In the midst of the ice abyss that gathered at the tip of Ram Hwajung’s wand, a quest window appeared before her as the ice manifested. It had been a full eight days since she descended from the Altamont Mountains to arrive at today.

Ram Hwajung finally achieved the feat of not logging out even for just one day, reaching it only today.

“Yoyeo~ Ppyeo~ Uuuuunniiiiiiii!”

At that moment, thinking of the two people she missed the most, Ram Hwajung collapsed backwards. Just as she was about to fall flat on the ice-made floor of Arzenmacht’s Lair, arzenmacht instinctively held her head and waist, preventing her from crashing down. Watching her faint and crumble, arzenmacht displayed a subtle smile, a smile that no dragon, including Blaugrunn, had ever seen.

Shortly after, Ram Hwajung’s physical form vanished into thin air, forced to log out due to accumulated fatigue. Arzenmacht, unfazed, gazed at the space where Ram Hwajung disappeared as if sensing her energy fading from his embrace.

Without hesitation, he used teleportation. Moments later, arzenmacht appeared in the Lair of Blaugrunn.

“Woah, arzenmacht-nim?”

“Blaugrunn, greetings.”

“What’s with the sudden visit? Wait a moment, I’ll call Leeha-”

“No need.”

“What?”

As Blaugrunn was about to call for Leeha, he stopped abruptly. Arzenmacht stood before him, pouring out what he wanted to say as if frustrated by the lack of someone to converse with, yet only a few words escaped his lips.

“What do you mean by that?”

“That’s all, so then.”

“Wait-”

Whoosh! Arzenmacht vanished on the spot. Blaugrunn, frozen in her posture without sitting or standing, without reading a book or listening to a story, watched him disappear with a strange sense of indescribable feeling. In Middle Earth, at least one user must be present for important matters to progress. Without needing to explain, arzenmacht’s words were indirectly relayed to Leeha through Blaugrunn.

Blaugunn: Leeha-nim?

Leeha: Oh, Blaugrunn-ssi. What is it?

Blaugrunn: Just now, arzenmacht visited and then left.

Leeha: That gentleman? What did he say?

(to be continued…)
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At that moment, Leeha, who was still rummaging through the White Reaper’s house, abruptly stopped. Blaugrunn’s words felt like a blow to his skull.

Leeha: What did you just say?

Blaugrunn: Excuse me? I’m just relaying what I heard.

Leeha: “The human woman crossed the wall. Second ice. Start.”

Blaugrunn: That’s all they said.

Leeha: Second ice? What does that mean?

Leeha asked.

Blaugrunn: I just passed on the message as it is.

Leeha: Second ice… Wait, could it be…

Leeha couldn’t contain the pounding of his heart. Everything had been rapidly changing ever since Chiyou merged with Bathory. And among those changes, this part was perhaps the most rapidly transforming.

‘Second class advancement?’

Leeha felt like Midl Earth was swirling from within.

Dookyyayayeo

The cave was so quiet that only the sound of water droplets falling could be heard. There was no artificial light, but from a corner, footsteps echoed urgently against the walls.

A nervous voice responded to the sound, “Are you so forgetful that you can’t even remember the appointment time?”

“Kakaka, so what? It’s daytime in Middle Earth anyway.”

Igor’s laughter boomed through the cave. Despite being three hours late and showing no hint of apology, Faust trembled with anger.

“Still, a promise is a promise. If you don’t keep it next time-”

“If I don’t keep it? You think you can handle me just because you got a couple of skeletal dragons?”


Though visibility was almost nonexistent, Igor locked eyes with Faust. The giant over twenty-two feet tall gazed down at Faust playfully brandishing his bone wand. However, Faust, draped in heavy armor, didn’t flinch. Instead, he casually pulled out a bone wand, saying, “Believing in dragons like that?”

“What if?”

Igor upped the ante, lips curling in provocation. It was the moment when Faust seemed to be giving in to the provocation.

“Both of you should stop.”

Another voice. Igor turned his head away from Faust as if his patience had run out and sat down on a rock.

“Don’t interfere recklessly, Chiyou’s lackey.”

Sasuke spoke without any agreement, stating his own business.

“Don’t try to act smart. I don’t want to, either. I just want to convey that Chiyou wishes to have precise status information from all of you and the content of the orders received from Bluebeard.”

Faust flinched for a moment, but Igor yawned as if he didn’t care at all.

“Status information? Same as before. What’s there to change?”

“You’re being too dismissive. Bluebeard remembers what you did back then. I hope you won’t ignore my eyes. I clearly saw what you received from the vampires… No, what was forcibly injected by Bluebeard. It’s ridiculous to say you avoid people’s eyes by meeting in a cave with no trace of light during broad daylight.”

Sasuke already knew. Not only had he long ago deciphered their behavioral patterns, but he had also reported offline to Chiyou what he had been thinking so far.

Chiyou realized that they had turned into vampires. But the issue was the lack of experience! Due to the ‘death penalty’ suffered in the game, Chiyou couldn’t access Middle Earth, and as a vampire, having never properly acted as one, she wanted to indirectly gain experience on the strengths and weaknesses of vampires through Igor and Faust.

“You don’t have to cooperate.”

Sasuke chuckled coldly.

“As you heard from the play, Chiyou has the authority and power to control you-”

“Are you trying to say he has enough authority and power to control us…?”

“Yes.”

Sasuke turned back to Faust, who he could still communicate with reasonably. Although he was an avatar of the real world, Sasuke was a ninja active in the shadows, so he had skills to adequately observe his opponents even in the darkness.

“Well, but there’s nothing particularly to tell you. What you think and what Chiyou thinks. Just leave it at that. Above all, Chiyou will find out for herself when she logs in, about this vampire… thing, which we actually have many questions about.”


“Kakaka, this bastard here is floating quite high.”

Igor sneered.

“That idiot dog doesn’t seem to have a clue, right? So let’s not let our guard down. After all, we should go in assuming that our ‘condition as three people’ is the same. Should we call ourselves the three vampire siblings?”

All three of them had gained vampire powers, hadn’t they? All three of them hadn’t undergone a second job advancement. So, let’s not get caught up in a power struggle over that point. That was what Igor intended to say. Faust furrowed his brow at Igor.

‘You’re already spilling information without even having a conversation with Chiyou once!’

Ignoring Faust’s gaze, Igor said to Sasuke, “But, idiot, that’s not important right now. It’s about what we have to do next.”

“And what exactly do we have to do?”

“Tame dragons.”

“What??”

“Haha, isn’t that funny? What could possibly be the reason for us roaming around catching dogs if not that!? Hm?”

Kakakakak! Sparks flew as the cave wall and Igor’s sword clashed.

“Th-that’s to increase our power.”

“… There’s no need to answer. The truth is, Igor doesn’t even know himself. It’s to cover up the fact that he’s clueless.”

Trying to create an oppressive atmosphere on purpose to make Sasuke shut up. Faust clearly understood why Igor was showing off by clashing with the cave wall.

“What the hell!?”

This time, Igor, who had realized his intentions were understood, glared at Faust, but Faust ignored that gaze and said, “What’s important is the instructions received from Le. Make at least four Lich Dragons within two months. Tell it to Chiyou just like that. Our condition… If you tell it like Igor said, she will understand.’ Faust said as he distanced himself from the riotous Igor and turned to Sasuke. Faust and Igor were quite perceptive and intelligent, but they didn’t compare to Chiyou’s ability to read the situation. They also wanted to find out why Bluebeard ordered them to create Richt Dragons, through Chiyou’s leadership.

“… Understood. I’ll convey your goals and conditions as they are. However, it is advisable to be particularly careful in your actions. Since Hyey revealed that you are with Chiyou already-”

“I know. That’s why we plan to hide here for a while. After resting for more than a fortnight, when interest in us subsides, we’ll come out again. Since only two are left until the goal, there’s not much time to spare.”

“Then, then! Hahaha, too much spare time is annoying!”

Sasuke felt the strong men’s composure in Faust and Igor’s voices. However, he couldn’t understand their true intentions.


“In terms of nuances, it felt like Lich Dragon would be retrieved when created. What is Le aiming for?”

“Do you think I’d be giving out information to someone like a moldy NPC? Hmph! If you collect dragons slowly, Chiyou will come asking for information then. So, all you have to do is find a way to escape from the Demon King’s Army while holding onto this power!”

It was only natural that a somewhat reluctant feeling arose towards Faust and Igor. When people gain power, they tend to change. Even after completing the second job advancement and obtaining two Lich Dragons, there was still a peculiar tension between the users affiliated with Bluebeard.

※: ※ ※

Based on the information heard from Blaugrunn, Leeha urgently tried to contact Ram Hwayeon.

However, ran Hwayeon had already logged out.

“Just now?”

“Yes. It hasn’t even been 30 minutes since the director logged out. She suddenly left without saying anything—oh, is that so? Alright, I understand, Jachung-ssi.”

Even Ram Hwayeon urgently left without saying anything to Jachung?

There would only be one incident that Ram Hwayeon handles urgently.

“It must be related to Ram Hwajung. Alright, I can ask when he returns.”

Just by hearing from Blaugrunn, significant deductions could be made. Simply a list of words, but even with what the dragon said, ran Hwayeon could roughly anticipate the situation.

“Considering the last words, it’s unlikely that the second job advancement has been completed yet.”

One of the reasons Ram Hwayeon still rummages through the abode of the White Reaper. The first advancement ended by grabbing a weapon in the class tower. What about the second job advancement?

Could the second job advancement also be determined by events like a weapon or other factors?

“It’s unlikely that the second job advancement would be a quest.”

Even if a quest for the second job advancement appears, it can be refused. Ram Hwayeon understood this principle through precedents.

“Even if I don’t know… the second job advancement will be completely different from the first advancement. Even within the same job class, depending on how the user played and how they approached elements like NPC quests would be assigned. So, even within the same first job class, there might be multiple branches for the second job advancement.”

Leeha eagerly waited for Ram Hwayeon to log in, while skimming through the data collected and recorded by the White Reaper. However, the content seemed scarce.

“The basic teachings of the Krabavi Knights… regarding the Krabavi Knight formation… expected infiltration routes of the Krabavi Knights… It’s mostly these types of data.”

There was a plethora of information about the White Reaper’s former enemy, Krabavi. Filled with detailed and regularly updated information, ran Hwayeon couldn’t help but admire the intensity of it.

‘Indeed, he is worthy of being called 『Human Hunters』.”

Just the mention of the White Reaper’ name would have made the members of Krabavi tremble in fear. Hiding in anticipation of an expected infiltration, always successfully executing a perfect sniper shot – that was the power of the White Reaper, who not only rigorously conducted his research but also proved his effectiveness in action. It was no wonder that the members of Krabavi had met their downfall.

“Looking back now, the national war was quite interesting. Setting the stage for players to clash and fight each other… I could even leisurely reminisce about the past battles, like a war of sniping… Huh!?”

As Leeha looked through the records of the White Reaper and recalled past events, a sudden chill ran down my spine. This sensation was not unfamiliar to him.

“A spirit? I sense the presence of a spirit. And quite a few of them.”

Simultaneously, I could sense six distinct presences. It was clear that they were approaching me.

No, strictly speaking, they weren’t coming for him.

“Oh… they’re coming here!?”

The White Reaper’ hideout! It was highly likely that the forces were coming to investigate the mysterious figure who had entered there.

In a rush, Leeha ascended from the underground chamber and concealed the entrance. Covering the fallen carpet and placing an armchair on top of it before cautiously approaching the window.

“It’s getting clearer. Krum, is this Wan? I can’t see anything yet, but… I can sense it, so I feel relieved. But still, I can’t let my guard down. There might be people without spirits too.”

This wasn’t near the city of Wood Elves! Near the Shazrashian, where Giants were the dominant race. Therefore, there were hardly any individuals close to spirits.

Reflecting on thinking that he had comprehended everything based on the spirit’s presence, Leeha carefully observed the outside world.

“Indeed, it wasn’t just six. Only six with spirits. The rest… about ten that I can see.”

More than sixteen people were starting to surround the house where Leeha was. Considering that they were with spirits, the possibility of them being related to the Demon King’s Army decreased.

If they were not hostile towards Leeha in the current situation, and if there was no sudden increase in animosity from the Wood Elves, then the remaining suspects were likely only the Giants.

The chances of any influential group associated with the Wood Elves increasing hostility towards me were slim. Apart from Eigor and Czar, practically non-existent. However, this place wasn’t really a suitable area for Czar anyway, and above all, Czar’s members were all inspectors, weren’t they?

Out of all the Czar individuals that Leeha had fought against so far, none of them were adept in handling spirits.

Then the users of the Shazrashian Federation shouted at the cabin, “This is the 216th Ranger unit! You are surrounded! Disclose your identity now and surrender unconditionally!”

(To be continued…) 
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the voice of the other party was indeed hostile, but Leeha let out a sigh of relief. Those affiliated with the Shazrashian Federation said, ‘Well, of course they wouldn’t want anyone wandering around in the Human Flesh Hunter’s house.’

Those who unconditionally designate the White Reaper’s residence as a place of evil and must monitor it!

Shuaaaah…!

Suddenly, a curtain of yellow light began to surround the house.

“Once again, surrender now! You are surrounded! Raise your hands above your head and surrender immediately, or we’ll resort to force!”

“Hoho, have they locked down the space?”

Despite hearing a fierce shout, Leeha didn’t particularly feel tense. Ordinary NPCs of the Old Continent trying to capture him?

“Jellypong, protect me if there is a surprise attack!”

*Myongmyong!*

At this moment, Leeha thought there was no need to show his strength. If their identities were ordinary rangers of the Shazrashian Federation.

Leeha opened the front gates of the White Reaper’s residence without even raising his hands.

*Creak…*

The sunlight reflecting on the snow made Leeha gleam.

“I am Ha Leeha, the Lord of Gaza City under Fibiel’s affiliation and the assassin of Tion! Why does the allied nation Shazrashian treat me as an enemy? The responsible person of 216 Ranger of Shazrashian Federation, come forth immediately!”

However, it was not just the sunlight that made Leeha shine. His dignified attitude was enough to put the giants on edge. And what worked even better than a dignified attitude was, of course, the system of Middle Earth.

『Dignity』

Description: The aura possessed only by those who have reached one of the highest positions achievable for an individual to succeed.

Effect: Absolute respect within one’s own country with a common prestige of 3,000 or less in the continent ((8 in total)), absolute respect for other countries with a common prestige of 1,000 or less in the continent ((0 in total)).

“Why haven’t you come out already!”


The echoing tone of Leeha continued. The confusion of the 25 giants from the 216th Ranger unit, who had surrounded the residence of the White Reaper, was keenly felt.

Amidst this, one of the giants approached from the center of the group, stumbling over his words.

“H-Ha Leeha… Are you…? This place is off-limits—”

“Affiliation and name?”

“Huh?”

“I said, state your affiliation and name, giant.”

The hesitation of the past days of endless chatter was nowhere to be found. Determined not to miss any information or data related to the White Reaper, he was prepared to do whatever it took, even if it went against his nature.

“Uh, I-I’ll introduce myself! I’m Second Lieutenant Mikhail, commander of the 216th Ranger unit under the Shazrashian Federal Northwest Border Management Brigade!”

The giant saluted towards him with his greatsword pressed against his chest. Shasrazia and Fibiel had been allies since ancient times, having fought the National War against Minis-Kraven together. Although it was not necessary for him to salute as they were not compatriots, mikhail, an NPC officer at the rank of Second Lieutenant, felt compelled to maintain his composure in the presence of Leeha’s “dignity”.

“Ahem. It’s nice to meet you, second Lieutenant Mikhail.”

“Huh??”

The strange greeting that merged “nice to meet you” and “nice to meet you too” confused the giant. Mikhail had to quickly establish a ‘concept’, as it wasn’t in his nature to act this way, in order not to diminish his authority.

“If the best person for this kind of thing… Uh, it must be Alexander, right?! I am Ha Leeha-nim of Gaza City under Fibiel.”

“Oh! I have heard of your esteemed name, it’s an honor.”

Although the tone was awkward beyond measure, the giant easily accepted it. Constrained by the achievements of Ha Leeha, the 480s were unable to muster the courage to rebel properly.

“I apologize for not knowing this is a restricted area. Is there a reason for it?”

“T-That’s… It’s because of the White Reaper, isn’t it?”

“That’s right! I already knew. This place became a special management area because of that wicked Human Flesh Hunter. If you’re a resident of Shazrashian, no one would dare set foot here. According to the law, you could be arrested on the spot and put on trial, or in some cases, your life could be in danger.”

Mikhail’s expression brightened as soon as Ha Leeha showed signs of giving up.

Despite feeling pressured by Ha Leeha, his attitude was that of a military leader heading a single platoon. Without directly mentioning Mikhail, he was indirectly threatening his countrymen, circumventing and pressuring them.


“Why is that? I heard the White Reaper is already dead.”

Of course, his statement was a kind of indirect warning. The code has been disregarded. As Mikhail couldn’t reply, Leeha took a step towards him.

“Can you tell me, lieutenant Mikhail?”

“I’m sorry, but it’s difficult for me to speak about matters that are highly regarded even in my homeland.”

“Even if I ask you specifically, you can’t tell me?”

“Ha Leeha-nim mentioned that you were unaware that this place is a restricted area, so I won’t report today as a special case. However, in the future, you must be cautious about entering. Since I am aware that you have been here before.”

Leeha flinched for a moment. It wasn’t discovered by staying here for a long time. Did he know about this from his last visit with Blaugrunn?

Thus, it must be interpreted as meaning that there is a device similar to an alarm magic mechanism here.

If it implies that one must reveal themselves to these people even if they return later… a decision had to be made immediately. If one were to retreat now, nothing would come of it.

“Should I go to the Shahzarsian Presidential Palace to inquire?”

“T-t-the Presidential Palace?”

“Yes. Tell them that Mikhail, the Lieutenant of the 216th Ranger Battalion from the Northwest 3rd Border Management Division, is too dedicated to his guard duty and refuses to answer questions, so I came to find out about it… Just go to the Remlin Palace. Got it. Sorry for stealing your busy time.”

“W-w-wait a moment!”

When Leeha took out his identification, mikhail stopped him.

The Shahzarsian Federation is not a kingdom. Therefore, the capital houses the President’s residence, not a royal palace.

Of course, Leeha did not have direct connections there, but entry depended on one’s determination. Despite Leeha’s long activity on the New Continent, his continental reputation was much higher than that of peaceful Shahzarsian users.

If he mobilized various connections there? Just mentioning Pope Urban II and ‘Exorcism Cardinal’ would be enough for the Shahzarsian President to make time for Leeha immediately.

“Understood… Whew, I’ll tell you then.”

“Alright? That’s it! Thanks to you, I saved some time!”

In the end, Leeha’s coercion could only elicit Mikhail’s concession, “Just because you call them high-ranking doesn’t mean you have to tremble like this…


‘Sorry, even after serving in the military, this is the only way I can treat you.’

Leeha held Mikhail’s hand in gratitude but had to conceal his gaze when looking at him. If he sympathized too much with their pitiful situation, the atmosphere they had awkwardly captured could dissipate again.

“Everyone, let’s withdraw!”

Mikhail shouted to the NPC guards around them. Leeha chuckled and followed them.

It was a very small outpost with a ranger barracks about an hour’s walk from the White Reaper’s dwelling, where the NPC beings resided.

“Ah, it’s nice to reminisce about the past.”

“Hey, have you ever lived the life of a ranger?”

“I’ve tried something similar.”

Rangers were essentially reconnaissance units. For Leeha, a former army soldier, these small units were quite familiar. Moreover, during the journey to this place, Leeha didn’t see a single soul.

In other words, all the rangers here meant a kind of code: 480. So, Leeha felt somewhat relieved.

Leeha’s words sparkled a liking in Mikhail’s eyes.

“Please, have this tea with ginger and yogurt liqueur.”

“Mmm~ I’ll enjoy it.”

A tea mixed with the smell of ginger and tangy yogurt liqueur?

The smell was a bit off-putting, but Leeha lifted the cup feeling it was a beverage to savor.

As it was a giant cup, it was almost like a feast for a human.

Despite feeling queasy due to the strange smell and size, Leeha managed to swallow it down.

“Wow! This is quite delicious.”

In the Middle Earth, the effects of alcohol were not applicable, only the smell and taste were 100% discernible. Watching Leeha’s enthusiasm, mikhail smiled warmly and took a seat.

“Where should I start…”

“There’s nothing to hide. I just want to be a force for the Shazrashian Federation. Isn’t that what a guild is about? And during the expedition to the New Continent, I also received help from the Bantal and Daoist Brothers, so I want to repay that help too.”

“Do you know Bantal-nim!?”

Leeha casually dropped the names of famous figures in Shazrashian, someone he barely(?) remembered. They were part of the team during the New Continent expedition, but since then, they had not had any contact, making the relationship almost nonexistent.

“Know enough. We sailed on the same ship and went on the same adventures, weren’t we comrades?”

There was no need to brag about such matters in this situation.

‘At least it’s not a lie, right? thought Leeha.

There was some reason for bringing up this kind of story. Giants, with their fiery personalities, worshipped camaraderie, friendship, and trust. So, Leeha used it as a way to get closer to Mikhail.

‘It’s not like I can keep whining about food now, given that I’ve pursued the strongman concept all along. I should have just gone with a food offensive from the beginning! If only I had used Kiyomi-Mifgar’s cooking, then I wouldn’t have just collapsed like a leaf in the wind.”

If things didn’t work out, he had to try that method too. The soldiers of Shazrashian were going through a hard time. A condolence train for the dead!

Unlucky or lucky, it no longer mattered what lay ahead to subdue them in what kind of way.

“Well, I guess I can tell you.”

“Yeah…”

“The residence of the Human Flesh Hunter… Why it became a forbidden area.”

The descendant of Shazrashian’s ‘Barbarian Hero’, Bantal. His name carried more weight than expected. Mikhail’s shared Shimo’s story with a pounding heart. The words that came out of him were even more shocking than what Leeha had anticipated.

“… Appearance? Oh, wait. The White Reaper was definitely exe-”

“Yes. The Human Flesh Hunter is dead. The place where the Human Flesh Hunter was executed was a quiet but relaxed small town. However, now… it has turned into a complete ghost city. It’s a ghost city without residents, and at the same time… it’s a ghost city where the ghost of the Human Flesh Hunter appears.”

“The ghost of the White Reaper…”

“That’s correct. Due to indiscriminately killing those who approach, it is no longer possible to live there, or… it is impossible to approach at all. We are protecting this place in case he comes back to his former residence in his lifetime. Fortunately, nothing of the sort has happened so far. In fact, the recent visitors have only been you, Ha Leeha-nim.”

Upon understanding the reason why Mikhail and his subordinates were so tense when they surrounded the area near the White Reaper’s residence after several years, they might have considered the person who visited the forbidden area as the ‘White Reaper’. Alarm magic only alerts of the presence of the same type of mana, without revealing the true identity. Therefore, it was a deduction that the first person to come was Highah, as no one had visited in years.

“So, what now? How are they dealing with it? How is Shazrashian handling this?”

“Officially, even the President does not recognize it.”

“Why? If the ghost is restless and causing havoc, can’t it be suppressed or–”

“We tried very hard to suppress it too.”

Mikhail was overflowing with pride for his homeland. Strong giants like him must have gone there as a matter of course. When he reached that point, Leeha’s eyes widened. Hasn’t it been a while since the story from a few moments ago? From that time until now, they couldn’t handle it?

“The reason the Human Flesh Hunter is famous is not just because of his misdeeds during his lifetime. Although we cannot officially announce that we have fallen victim to his ghost… knowledgeable people are aware of it. The knights and mages who went to deal with him and sacrificed themselves until now are too numerous to count.”

Does it mean that everyone who went there died? And to hide this ‘truth’, Shazrashian is executing internal investigations diligently.

“The White Reaper…”

Leeha’s body trembled. He thought he was dead, but he was still alive.

‘No, strictly speaking, isn’t he not alive? If he’s in a ghost state, isn’t it possible to communicate?’

(To be continued…)
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“Officer Mikhail.”

“Yes?”

“Where can I meet him?”

Leeha blinked, asking eagerly. Mikhail waved his hands dismissively.

“I can’t tell you that! It’s dangerous, and I can’t just reveal our country’s secrets to a foreign noble so casually.”

“Officer Mikhail? How about we go to Remlin Manor and ask, ‘I heard from Officer Mikhail, where is it?'”

“Oh, um…”

Mikhail clutched his head, but Leeha wasn’t going to let him off easy. Once you catch a weakness, it’s basic in warfare to pursue it until the end. A moment later, Leeha emerged from the ranger outpost with a smile on his face.

“Hey! I promise not to spread any rumors about where we’re going, so don’t worry!”

The location where the White Reaper’s ghost appeared was not far from where they were. But even for Leeha, who had purchased a map of the entire Shazrashian region, it was a place that didn’t seem particularly noteworthy, a very remote spot suitable for hiding secrets and maintaining control.

“Alright. Let’s start by visiting the nearby village. Oh, I should inform.”

Using a return scroll to teleport to the village, Leeha inserted a note into the warp gate directing towards the village near the location where the White Reaper’s ghost manifested.

Leeha: Blaugrunn! Do you want to hear some exciting news?

Blaugrunn: What is it?

Leeha: The White Reaper- I mean, the Human Flesh Hunter, do you know who it is?

Blaugrunn: Yes, but they’re dead-

Leeha: Their ghost remains.

Blaugrunn: What?

Leeha: Their ghost remains intact! And apparently, they are attacking people around. Doesn’t it sound exciting? Quickly-


Before Leeha could finish speaking, a cyan light shimmered around him.

“Where!? Where are they?”

“You seem to be coming faster than when I call for help?”

“Oh, come on. Do I look like someone who would do that? But where’s the Human Flesh Hunter’s ghost? Is it due to necromancy magic?”

As Leeha spoke disgustedly, Blaugrunn put on a cute act.

“I will tell you on our way there. Come on, let’s go! Shazrashian Federation, Hamina Castle, Warp Gate 2!”

Leeha chuckled and flipped a coin to the Warp Gate NPC.

“Don’t underestimate my Dignity.”

“What??”

“No, nothing. I thought you would naturally figure it out by coming this far, but it’s tougher than I thought.”

Leeha and Blaugrunn were seated facing each other at the pub. Leeha let out a sigh. He had started gathering information as soon as they arrived at Hamina Castle, but because there was no significant harvest, he felt a bit drained.

“Mikhail must not have lied. Considering the scale of the castle, there are a tremendous number of knights wearing armor.”

Since the number of roaming users wasn’t that high, most of them were not high level yet.

“White Reaper? What’s that? Oh, a beast hunting class?! Don’t talk to me.”

“… If it’s about the beast hunting class, I have nothing to say.”

“Who’s bringing up such an unlucky name? Do you want to fight!?”

However, there were no easy talkers who could provide Leeha with the information he wanted. Giants often dispersed at the mention of a White Reaper or a name like ‘Shimo.’ It would have been fortunate if that was the case, but some individuals turned aggressive and guarded against Leeha. Leeha regretted activating 『Dignity』 a bit late.

“But there are limits to extracting information with dignity. Above all, it’s risky.”

In front of Mikhail, he could act arrogant and cause a scene, but this was unquestionably the castle of a nation. Asserting his power with the dignity buff in a place like this could backfire. Leeha instinctively knew when to assert dominance and when not to push it too far.

“Is what’s here true?”


“Yes, it should be true. Since Mikhail wouldn’t lie. Then everyone must be trying to hide it.”

Initially, mikhail also dismissed it as ‘unofficial business.’ But that was when it was just a rumor; this was a place Mikhail had directly mentioned.

“It’s near the execution site for White Reaper. Meaning, the patrols and knights around here are well aware.”

The reason for openly concealing the conversation might be because he was not affiliated with Shazrashian.

“Shazrashian… being associated with them. Not because I’m not a giant? Hmm, not really. It’s more of a visceral response of disgust, like seeing feces or insects… What could that be?”

Something unpleasant lingered in one corner of Leeha’s mind, but he couldn’t pinpoint exactly what it was.

“Should I just spill the beans?”

“Hoho, it’s a good idea, but at least not within these walls. It wouldn’t end well if you did it recklessly.”

“But what about the other side trying to do so?”

“Ah… Blaugrunn gestured towards the door of the tavern. Leeha turned his head to look in that direction.

In front of the swinging doors stood a group of knights, unmistakably members of a knightly order.

Clank, clank, clank.

They walked straight in, opening the door and approaching the table where Leeha and Blaugrunn sat.

“I am a Knight of the 7th Squadron, Unit 1, Guardia. State your business. Whom are you after?”

The knights questioned.

Leeha, despite the presence of the knights, remained calm.

“Even in the face of the giants, the existence of the informant network has not been compromised. Who are you looking for, guardsman?”

Blaugrunn replied.

“Wait a moment! Blaugrunn, stop!”

It had only been about an hour since they arrived to gather information. Why were they being targeted for arrest already?


Leeha thought it was rather fortunate.

“Fine, go ahead and make the arrest then.”

The knight winked at Blaugrunn, who glared at Leeha with resentment as he obediently held out his hands.

“Trying to endure it?”

Leeha teased.

“Sometimes it’s good to be tied up by humans. It’s all part of the experience, isn’t it?”

To Blaugrunn, the knights from the insignificant town were nothing but mere nuisances. Having his arms restrained by handcuffs and sighing in resignation was simply a natural progression of events.

Leeha and Blaugrunn were immediately separated and taken for interrogation at Hamina Castle. It was quite a fresh experience for Leeha.

“Who sent you here?”

As the giant slammed the table, the hanging lights above trembled. Leeha, with a surprised expression, looked at the figure before him.

“You’re quite strong.”

“What’s with you bastard! You kept asking about the Human Flesh Hunter, and you bastard just keeps dodging my questions! Who ordered this?” the giant interrogator demanded.

“Who else should order it? I was curious, that’s all”, Leeha replied calmly.

“You said you’re from Fibiel!” the giant continued.

“Yes, that’s correct.”

“Then why keep asking about the Human Flesh Hunter?” the giant questioned angrily.

Thud!

The giant investigator slammed the table once more. Leeha worried that the table might break from the impact. Dragged by the guards to the interrogation room after parting ways with Blaugrunn, over 20 minutes had already passed, but it seemed like the story was going in circles.

“I mentioned it before, but I still don’t understand what I did wrong! Is it a crime to ask questions out of curiosity? Why can’t I ask? Is being from Fibiel is a problem?”

“It is! There’s no need to ask! But you asked. Because you’re not from Fibiel!”

“Gah, geez, this is so frustrating! I am from Fibiel-”

“Then what about this rifle? Isn’t it the White Reaper’s rifle!?”

“-The White Reaper’s rifle! No, it’s nothing. Ah…?”

Remembering the vanished rifle, swallowed down the words of its consumption, and calmed down the excitement. Thinking about the disappeared rifle made him feel regretful.

“Mm, it seems like Black Bass absorbed it… but it didn’t absorb its performance, so it just disappeared. But until when will he keep asking these pointless questions?”

He had followed along willingly, thinking he might gather some information, but the frustrating situation kept dragging on.

“Oh, and by the way, there’s a profession called a musketeer in Fibiel, so why is it strange for me to use a rifle?”

“… Because the Human Flesh Hunter use firearms.”

“They used to use them, not are currently using them?”

He narrowed his eyes and glared at the Giant Guard.

The present tense suffix. Leeha knows something.

“Ahem! No, there’s no need to listen. Liars are only sent to the deepest underground prison. Hey! Take this guy out and bring the next brat!”

At the same time, he was hiding something. He shouted towards the investigators as he was being dragged away by the Giant Guard.

“If you treat that brat like you did to me, you’ll be in big trouble~”

“Quiet!”

Looking at the investigators disregarding his sincere(?) warning, he couldn’t help but feel like laughing.

‘They’ve dug really deep underground. Although it’s uncertain whether it’s a transport loop, it’s at least 7 floors underground. Impressive construction skills, huh? But again, since there’s no building on top, maybe it was possible. Being purely designed for prison purposes, the underground extension was quite deep indeed.

Considering the size of the castle, it was an unreasonable scale.

To be imprisoned in the underground prison of a remote castle in the allied nation, the Shazrashian Federation, was something he had never even thought of throughout his time in the Middle Earth play.

He was dragged to the lowest level and thrown in.

“Get in!”

“Oh, this is too much. What did I do? I’m not a suspect yet, a suspect! I haven’t committed any crime, why am I being locked up like this-”

“Shut up!”

The giants held up torches and ascended the stairs once more.

In the dimly lit corridor, he smiled.

“I haven’t committed a crime. They didn’t even hold a trial for me. But why the lowest level of the underground prison out of the blue? Something’s up. If they treat ordinary people like this, there’ll be chaos.”

Therefore, the excessive reactions of the NPCs indicated that things had already reached a significant level.

“There is an answer in the question, there is an answer in the question… What could be the meaning of that question?”

The Shazrashian Federation is not composed solely of the Giant race.

There are clearly humans present, and occasionally users who seek perverse (?) challenges like Wood Elves, miyaw, lizardia, and others.

“So, the Musketeer profession is rare but not non-existent. But holding a rifle like that? What if that was the White Reaper’s rifle? What’s the point of confiscating it? What would you do after confiscating it?”

Should we even bother passing on the message to the hunter who has already become an executed ghost?

A laugh could be heard from Leeha.

“No, that’s just nonsense. Aren’t the Human Flesh Hunter causing chaos, attacking people around, and just going berserk? Isn’t it said that you can’t get close to him?”

The nuance of Mikhail’s words was clearly like that.

Maybe calling for Blaugrunn was also to prepare for any unforeseen circumstances. But why worry about delivering a rifle to the White Reaper?

“Really, what good would it do to deliver it to a ghost? But… Wait, hold on. Something seems strange. Why worry about that?”

The White Reaper is already a ghost that has been executed. What could possibly change by delivering a weapon to them?

Perhaps the concern is not about delivering the weapon.

Is it about guarding against someone who can approach them?

Wait a moment… So, does that mean there is a category of ghost that the White Reaper does not attack?

If such a category exists, then what would it be?

“Oh, wait, wait!”

Clearly, the answer was in the question. The Giant investigator kept asking.

Where are you from?

Where in the Middle Earth user would there be a home country?

The character’s origin becomes the country they belonged to when creating the character. Even if you later seek asylum or change nationality, the original country becomes the homeland and birthplace of the Middle Earth character.

‘But I kept saying Fibiel over and over, but they didn’t believe me. Why didn’t they believe it?”

Suddenly, Leeha stood up from his seat. Clatter… Pebbles fell from Leeha’s fingertips.

“Maybe… Huh?”

There was a strange feeling as he pressed the wall. Despite the rough stone wall, there was a sharp indentation that seemed artificial.

“Oh, I can’t see anything useful to light here.”

Items like torches or light magic cannot be used here. It is a penalty that the prison imposes on the users. Leeha expressed it as being “taken away” and caressed the imprint on the stone wall with his finger.

He searched in the direction of this room, that room, and finally succeeded in finding the beginning of the indentation on the wall.

“Is this where it starts? It’s big. It seems like something written in large letters. A sentence? A writing?”

Leeha touched it cautiously, following it bit by bit.

(To be continued…)
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Sa-ahak, sa-a-ahak, sa-a-a-ahak…

“Could this be it?”

With each letter he followed, chills ran down his body. With a level of concentration that made it seem like he could see the letters, he could do nothing but stare blankly at the invisible wall.

I will never forget, even in death.

Until I kill all the Krabavi! For all the Panrind compatriots!

-Shimo-

“Is this a message left by the White Reaper? Was this the room where the execution was carried out before?”

He vaguely understood.

“My origin! They asked to find out if I am from Panrind! If that’s the case, it’s easy! It means that the current current ghost of the White Reaper won’t attack because it’s Panrind. Because he is of Panrind descent.”

Perhaps Middle Earth had lured 『qualified individuals』 to this place from the beginning, just like a quest. No matter how advanced the artificial intelligence was, it was ultimately limited to NPCs. The limitations were clear even in the questions.

Leeha didn’t know at first, but at this moment, he realized that he had solved the problem himself and reached the next one.

“It was like that from the beginning. I remember the consistent ‘words’ that Mikhail, as well as the investigators who arrested and dragged me to Hamina Castle or prison, used in response to all the questions I asked here.”

Even when asked about the White Reaper, their reactions were always the same.

『Human hunter』. They only referred to Shimo as a Human Flesh Hunter. It wasn’t even a name, and it wasn’t White Reaper. It couldn’t be anything else! They were all –

The forever cursed past Krabavi nation and the current residents of the Krabavi region.

Weren’t they all the Giant race, the NPCs?

“Does that mean the current restless White Reaper’s Ghost is related to regional and racial discrimination issues?”

Shwoaaa…!

A hologram window appeared before him.


『I took action. I had no choice but to-1』

Description: The Krabavi had countless opportunities to accept our goodwill. However, they insulted our brothers and sisters and committed despicable acts against weak and innocent compatriots. They would not know. How much we endured, and how. Someone must tell them, no matter who it is, even if they wear the devil’s disguise.

The deep-rooted grudge of the Panrind nation’s hero, the White Reaper, prevented his flesh from resting even in death. Meet the White Reaper’s Ghost, who acts with only one determination, to guide him to eternal rest. But remember, only those acknowledged by him can meet him.

Content: Meet the White Reaper’s Ghost and listen to his story Reward: I took action. I had no choice but to-2

Condition for Failure: Death by the White Reaper

On failure: 『Resurrected White Reaper』

Cancel, return to the original quest route- Will you accept it?

As Leeha stared at the quest window with a heavy heart, his eyes widened.

“Huh? Wh-what, wh-what!? What! What!”

He stuttered, unable to say anything besides “what.”

The quest content was simple. However, the rewards and failure penalty caught Leeha’s attention.

The reward was a linked quest! But the failure penalty…

“Resurrected White Reaper ‘Cancellation’? Quest route restored to its original state?!”

Leeha had never received a quest called “Resurrected White Reaper.”

Moreover, the expression “quest route restored to its original state” was puzzling! Even Leeha, who had experienced Middle Earth in all its strangeness through various means, had only seen it once before.

Descendants of the Three Musketeers, 『when it hits…』

Leeha saw that test only during that time. Moreover, he had only experienced something related to resurrection once, when he used the Myth-grade item, easter Egg, to resurrect Blaugrunn, which was only capable of completely reviving NPCs.

Leeha tried to calm his trembling body but it wasn’t easy. He had only come to find a Legendary Sniper at first. He hoped to gain some knowledge that would help him in combat since the rifle was modeled after a legendary sniper.

But this… what was this?

He still couldn’t fully comprehend everything in his mind. However, he could sense what the sequence of events was hinting at.


“This could possibly…”

Ram Hwayeon: Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha, are you there!?

Leeha: Oh, it’s Ram Hwayeon!

In that moment, a voice echoed in Leeha’s mind. When Ram Hwayeon, who usually seemed uncharacteristically excited, heard her voice, a feeling of a once dark underground prison suddenly brightening came over Leeha.

Ram Hwayeon: Hwajung! Hwajung received a quest-

Leeha: Ahh! Is that the second job advancement quest?

Ram Hwayeon: Oh, how did you know?

Leeha: Hehe, just a lucky guess. So, what’s the quest about? Oh, Ram Hwajung hasn’t logged in yet?

Seeing Ram Hwayeon’s face almost laughing made Leeha let out a chuckle. At the same time, a sense of relief washed over him.

While Leeha hadn’t directly connected Silver Dragon and Ram Hwajung, wasn’t it because of him that the two beings had met?

Leeha: You’re acting all mysterious. Like sending off a young bird from the nest—no, but it’s more embarrassing to say this when I’m weaker than Ram Hwajung.

By the time Leeha laughed, ran Hwayeon’s excitement had subsided. Although she wanted to share the good news, she checked to see if he knew first. The clueless Leeha still had a smile on his face.

Ram Hwayeon: 『Extraction of Abyssal Ice』 was the quest content, or so I’ve heard, but I don’t know the details. She fell asleep again right away. I just logged in for a moment because she asked me to tell Leeha.

Leeha: Oh, really? I guess you understand the gratitude of the one who introduced her.

Ram Hwayeon: She likes you.

Leeha: What?

Ram Hwayeon: Nothing, forget it then. I’m leaving now.

Leeha: Wait, ran Hwayeon!

Leeha called out Ram Hwayeon’s name, but she had already logged out. Leeha had no idea about the sudden coldness in his heart.

‘Why is she acting like this? Is she very busy? Anyway, tomorrow… tomorrow!? It’s already the end of the year in the real world!’


Then he realized.

That in the real world, tomorrow was indeed the end of the year. Since he logged in this morning, he still had about four days in Middlearth time, but calling it a luxury felt somewhat awkward.

“Ugh, of all times! I received a strange quest as well!”

Leeha made up his mind. With even the quest appearing before his eyes abnormally, there was no time to wastue.

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi.

Blaugrunn: Yes?

Leeha: Let’s go, dragon Form.

Blaugrunnh: Understood.

With a flash—

Along with a deafening sound, the entire underground prison began to shake.

The screams from above and all sorts of chaotic noises also reached Leeha’s ears. After a while, staggering footsteps could be heard, and the area beneath the underground stairs began to glow.

“Hurry up, pitiful thing.

“Y-yes, understood!”

Being pushed by Blaugrunn, who had returned to his boy form, five giants were coming down in a hurry. In a dignified manner, Leeha stood confidently in front of the iron bars.

“Report to the Lord. I will personally take care of the White Reaper. And you will guide me to the place where the White Reaper’s Ghost comes from.”

Whether the giants were hiding something or showing off the White Reaper was not important now. What mattered was solving this quest, by any means necessary. Leeha poured all his attention into that sole purpose. The news of a Bronze Dragon appearing in a small castle in the northwest of Shazrashian had spread among the giants but soon faded into oblivion.

It was the judgment of the Shazrashian’s main giant users that it was highly unlikely to be true, as there was no dragon lair nearby, nor was it part of a dragon raid event. Of course, at the time of such rumors, Leeha was already entering the area about a 40-minute carriage ride from Hamina Castle.

“Is that the place?”

“Yes, that’s correct. That’s the area where the Human Flesh Hunter was executed and abandoned.”

The surroundings were heavily guarded, with giant scouts monitoring for any individuals or troublemakers entering the area. The high walls and steel doors were there to prevent the escape of the White Reaper’s Ghost, or perhaps to keep the residents of Panrind out. Whatever the reason, it was not important to Leeha. What mattered was that he had to enter that place now.

“Phew… Am I really going to meet the senior?”

Leeha and Blaugrunn got off the carriage. The vigilant southern giants flinched momentarily at the sight of the humans but remained silent after seeing Leeha with the other giants.

“Open the door.”

“But… We cannot enter this place. I’ve already told you.”

“I know, so open it.”

With a flash of his eyes, Leeha compelled the giant to unlock the iron door. The rusty lock creaked open. It was already known by those who had come this far – this was the secret space being concealed in Shazrashian, the place where the White Reaper’s Ghost came out. Many giants who entered to catch him had perished there. However, Leeha had to go in. To meet the White Reaper in person and resolve his grudge. Well, more accurately, to receive compensation.

The iron door closed. Leeha heard the giants outside grumbling, but he paid them no mind. Taking out the crystal ball to save the location, the search for the White Reaper began.

“Blaugrunn, always keep the shield up. Especially in the area of your Dragon Heart, double and triple it.”

As soon as Leeha stepped into the dungeon, he could feel the air change.

“What? Weren’t we here to find a human ghost anyway?”

“I doubt you’ll listen to me anyways. You might as well walk by my side.”

“Understood.”

“If it gets too dangerous, we’ll teleport right away.”

“Yes.”

Blaugrunn cast a barrier spell on Leeha and himself.

Leeha began by cautiously surveying the surroundings with slow steps. In the past, carriages used to pass through narrow paths with hills on both sides. Between the hills covered with deciduous trees in the distance, there was a fence that could have served as the outer wall of a village.

‘This must be the first point. Watching from above the hills on both sides… Isn’t that too fast?’

Unless there was a large-scale attack planned, being this close to the entrance is too risky. If Leeha were the White Reaper, they wouldn’t aim for a sniper shot from such a close range.

“Not only knights but also professions like giant mages came to collect the ghost of White Reaper. If that’s the case, aiming for a sniper shot from that location is too close. If even one mage misses, the White Reaper themselves will-”

Kaaaah———

“Ugh!”

“Ha, Leeha-nim!”

As Leeha walked while looking around, their body was thrown backwards. Blaugrunn tried to approach swiftly, but Leeha pushed him away.

“To the hill! Let’s go to the hill on the opposite side, behind the left slope!”

“What? But-”

Kaaaah———!

“… Haa!”

Blaugrunn, who had been hesitating and stepping back, shook his head vigorously. Unable to regain his balance, he ended up rolling a full circle before quickly moving towards the location Leeha had mentioned.

Leeha, still in the same position they fell in, lowered his body and hid beneath the slope on the opposite side from Blaugrunn.

“Haa, haa. Blaugrunn-ssi! Are you okay?”

“I’m fine! And you, Leeha-nim? You were knocked down in a single hit!”

“I’m fine! I didn’t take any damage, so don’t worry!”

However, Leeha’s heart was racing like crazy. The pulsating heartbeats felt as if they were about to explode, a clear indicator of Leeha’s recent state.

“I would’ve died. If it weren’t for Blaugrunn’s shield, I would’ve died. And yet, it was strong enough to withstand a single blow?

The rapid heartbeat wasn’t due to the relief of surviving or the fact that they had spotted the White Reaper.

‘Where… did it come from?”

The fear of not being able to spot someone aiming for their life. That was what made Leeha’s heart race. The fear of becoming a target after always being the sniper was beyond imagination. (To be continued… ) 
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“Leeha-nim! Leeha-nim!”

“Oh, yes?”

“Are you okay?”

Blaugrunn, the bronze dragon, looked at Leeha with a worried expression from the slope on the opposite side. Even though his true identity was a Bronze Dragon, a being a hundred times more reliable and inherently great than Leeha, seeing him worry about her in her “little” state, Leeha’s hardened heart slowly began to soften.

“Blaugrunn, could you please use a loudspeaker spell?”

“A loudspeaker spell? Just a moment.”

Blaugrunn cast the spell. Luckily, being hidden behind the slope, where no attacks were being made, made it an easy environment to use the magic.

“Alerting the White Reaper! We have not come to fight! Please do not attack!”

Leeha roared loudly towards him. His eyes just blinked, and there was no response. Leeha shouted again.

“I haven’t come to fight! I’m not a giant! I have your rifle- uh, I mean, I had it!”

Though Leeha didn’t explicitly say “right now”, if this message got through, he wouldn’t attack further. Leeha waited for a moment.

“Hwook, good. 『Platinum Shield』.”

And then he stood up. Blaugrunn tried to stop him with a pleading gaze, but there was no time for that. Thud, thud, thud. Leeha stood in the middle of the road again, strengthening his stance.

“White Reaper, reporting to Shimo-nim! We…”

KAABOOM! The sound of Platinum Shield being struck was like kicking a huge barrel.

“Leeha-nim!”

Leeha’s neck jerked backward as his whole body tumbled onto the snowy ground.

“Are you okay, Leeha-nim!”

Blaugrunn was about to rush out immediately. Sensing that, Leeha spoke up.


“Ah, it didn’t work.”

Thud! Gunfire rang out once again. Leeha quickly flipped over and crawled down the slope. Even in the perfect cover, a snowball sprang up as it hit the spot where Leeha’s foot was.

“Are they shooting again?”

In that brief moment, he managed to dodge another shot. If his movement had been just a little slower, he might have lost his ankle this time.

“What? Why won’t he stop?”

“He could hear my voice, but… maybe it’s just not working as expected.”

“What do you mean! Faced with a ghost who indiscriminately attacks—”

“No, I thought it wouldn’t be indiscriminate. I was expecting something else.”

His disappointment spoiled his mood. Blaugrunn asked, puzzled, “Expecting?”

“I thought he wouldn’t shoot unless it was a Giant… well, it seems not.”

The first assumption was to only attack those from Krabavi origin. But that wasn’t the case.

“Seems like he would eliminate anyone who isn’t from Panrind.”

He pressed his forehead in frustration. The bullet that had just grazed him was right on his brow.

So, what should he do? He opened the quest window once again.

『I acted. I had no choice but to do it -1』

Description:

“Krabavi has had countless opportunities to accept our goodwill. However, they mocked our siblings, committed atrocities against innocent compatriots, and did despicable deeds. They must not know how much and in what manner we endured. Someone must tell them, even if it means turning the devil’s mask inside out.”

The deep-rooted grudge of the Panrind hero, the White Reaper, prevented his spirit from resting even in death. Meet the ghost of the White Reaper, who acts with only one purpose, and guide him to eternal peace. But remember, only those acknowledged by him can meet him.

Content: Listen to the story of the White Reaper’s ghost.

“There is no one from Panrind on Middle Earth. So, ultimately, being acknowledged means…”


They want him to listen to his story. But he attacks. To avoid being attacked, he must gain his acknowledgment.

How does one gain acknowledgment?

“Well, that’s right. So… this is how you become part of Middle Earth.”

It means to subdue the ghost of the White Reaper.

“Oh… I almost forgot.”

“What?”

“I thought sniping was something only I could do. I mistakenly believed that all Middle Earth snipers were on my side.”

He brought out Black Bass. Up until now, every user or NPC who became a musketeer was practically one of his friends. The fact that he didn’t risk his life against Elizabeth or Brown was proof of that.

“But this is different. If the White Reaper were alive, and in his right mind, he might have been on my side.”

However, what about now?

“It is just my quest goal. He is already a deceased person, and practically just a ghost tied to indiscriminately attacking all Minis organisms! So-”

Fight, Leeha.

He trembled.

Seeing his face change strangely with a mix of tension and excitement, blaugrung’s gaze also changed.

“Shall we find the enemy?”

And Leeha was a natural sniper.

“Yes. It will probably be somewhere around a window of the abandoned buildings in the village that is visible in front of us, and the distance is roughly around 1,300 meters. It shouldn’t be more than 1,500 meters at most, even if it’s long.”

“Yes, yes.”

Two shots aimed towards Leeha, and one shot aimed towards Blaugrunn. The enemy had fired a total of three shots.

For Leeha, the three shots contained all the information needed to pinpoint the sniper’s location.


“First, it’s not on the hill in terms of angle. The angle of impact was close to eye level, and looking at the direction of the bullet collision, it’s facing straight ahead.”

“And it’s the front direction at the current moment, a place where the body can be hidden and within range to take a shot would be none other than the ruined village.”

“And it takes about 2.2 to 2.3 seconds for the sound of the gunshot to reach after impact. If the enemy’s rifle is the same as before death, it is the Mosin-Nagant. The muzzle velocity is 8080 feet per second. Due to Minis’s characteristics, there is not much difference between muzzle velocity and post-firing velocity. Reverse calculation gives a firing distance of around 1,300 meters.”

Facing straight ahead, with a firing angle close to eye level, and a distance of 1,300 meters to hide the body.

Leeha had already classified the White Reaper as 『the enemy』.

“Start with mana detection.”

“Got it.”

While Blaugrunn immediately conducted mana detection, Leeha checked the rifle’s status.

“Okay, everything’s fine. The magazine is sufficient.”

Once Blaugrunn confirmed the location, he immediately used mana vision and prepared to fire quickly.

Since the distance had already been confirmed, the scope clicks had been adjusted as well. The key would be how fast the target moved, but Leeha was confident. With the Platinum Shield still active, he believed he could withstand at least one shot.

“Even if I take a hit after firing one shot, I can return fire.`Phew, phew, haa….”

As Leeha regulated his breathing, blaugrung’s mana detection also came to an end.

“Leeha-nim!”

“Good! In which building-”

“There isn’t one?”

With a swift movement like a boxer throwing a punch, Leeha turned his body, but Blaugrunn did not give the answer he desired.

“-Wha-what?”

The moment Leeha turned his head towards Blaugrunn, he felt it. Something was already flying towards his throat.

“Kaaahhhhhh——”

Like being struck hard, Leeha’s body flew to the side.『Mana Clairvoyance』!”

Even while flying, Leeha scanned the distant ruins below. Nothing was visible. The platinum sigil disappeared. After rolling once in mid-air, Leeha slithered next to Blaugrunn. In that fleeting moment of flight, something was clearly visible to Leeha. There was no sense of mana within the distant ruins.

“Incredible… How is this possible, high Priest?”

“What, what is it?”

“I can’t feel any mana! Even if it’s a ghost, there should be some mana present! To be able to conceal it so perfectly! It’s amazing how one can transform into a ghost state without the need for a necromancer, and to be able to hide one’s presence at the same time! Amazing! Impressive, White Reaper!”

Leeha exclaimed, admiring Blaugrunn’s glistening eyes, lowering his in awe.

“Anyway, it seems that something rare is happening if Blaugrunn is reacting this way. In other words… it must be something so unusual that it would astonish a dragon.”

This was no ordinary problem.

“If we can’t find the enemy, we might as well be useless”, Leeha muttered to themselves.

“I thought they might be hiding inside the building, but that may not be the case.”

Just before his body took flight, Leeha remembered the village they had last seen. Their speculation was that the window frame of the ruined building might offer a good vantage point for a brief engagement.

“Distance, angle, the body… No, the ghost, perhaps. At any rate, if there’s a place where one can conceal their form, that place would be the only option.”

So, Leeha focused his eyes with intensity. However, amidst the dim window frames of the ruined building, there was no glint of light.

“I couldn’t see the muzzle flash of a rifle caliber .380. It could be a musket, but given the speed of the bullet, it’s unlikely to be one.”

Leeha would actually welcome a musket, as the gunpowder smoke would give away the location. But that didn’t seem to be the case. Clearly, the White Reaper was using firearms.

Leeha’s deductions were logical and sound, yet he reached a limit. The only answer that emerged from his current deductions was one: “It means he is not hiding behind the window frame of that ruined building. He might be elsewhere. Even if he fired the first and second shots from behind the window frame, there’s a possibility he could fire the third shot from elsewhere.”

“Eureka…”

“What’s ‘Eureka’ about?”

“It just feels like legends are indeed legends. Wasn’t he invincible in the snow-covered wilderness?”

Leeha recalled the White Reaper of Middle Earth, a humanoid hunter, and a sniper with the same name that existed in reality, smiling. The master of concealment. A genius sniper who did not use a scope, leaving no light reflection whatsoever, and even attempting to conceal his own breath.

Leeha never expected to engage in a counter-sniper battle with such an opponent. Where could the White Reaper be hiding? From where is he targeting Leeha? While Leeha could designate the area, without pinpointing the exact spot, Leeha couldn’t solve this problem.

‘What should we do?’

“It’s snowing now, so we can possibly use Frost Pulse Lightning. Or we could target only the buildings with regular Call Lightning. It seems possible to hit just the buildings.”

Blaugrunn’s hands were gathering turquoise mana. It was a perfect situation to use lightning-related magic due to the weather conditions. Leeha hesitated to stop him but decided to let him be.

Is he going to engage in a sniper battle based on pride alone?

It’s a great mindset, but the efficiency is lacking.

“Go ahead, try it. Start by blasting away the buildings in front of you.”

“Got it.”

Most importantly, Leeha wanted to see it. And at the same time, there was a certain belief.

Though it was actually a belief that put him at a disadvantage, if he was the legendary sniper who had vanquished the Giant Knight Corps and the Sorcerer Corps he had been searching for so ardently…

『Nimbus Call Lightning』

Blaugrunn shot sparks towards the clouds.

Snow started falling heavily, and lightning began to pour down.

Flash, flash, crack-!

Seizing the chaotic moment, Blaugrunn revealed himself and targeted the abandoned buildings in the village.

『Call Lightning』

Crack-! Crack-! -!

With each lightning strike, the old buildings shattered into pieces.

Wood splinters flew around, some caught fire and burned, and within moments, over a dozen buildings in front of them disappeared.

‘But surely he won’t take this lying down.’

Leeha enjoyed the spectacle of Blaugrunn’s raucous magic display without even bothering to look up.

Blaugrunn’s magic was undoubtedly powerful.

Yet, it was reported that dozens of human mages had died at his hands so far.

Even if Blaugrunn’s magic was potent, it would be impossible for it to unleash this level of destruction if several human mages were to cast their spells simultaneously.

However, the White Reaper’s Ghost still remained.

This likely meant that they couldn’t simply eliminate him with ‘just’ magic.

“There’s still no mana detection. Could he have been hit by his magic?”

Kaaaaaaa—

Blaugrunn’s slender figure staggered backwards. His dragon scales automatically wrapped around him, preventing any fatal injuries, so Leeha couldn’t help but laugh at the sight.

“Hehe, that’s enough. Cancel the magic and come back.”

“Uh, sorry, Leeha! How can you laugh in this situation!”

Blaugrunn got up quickly and walked towards Leeha. The lightning bolts falling from the clouds did not disappear immediately. Amidst the rumbling thunder, Leeha listened carefully. Thud—!

(To be continued…)
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The sound of gunfire reached Leeha about 3 seconds ago. He nodded his head.

The enemies had already moved. It must have been quite a while ago.

“It’s not easy indeed. Well, I have to do this much. The distance is quite fair.”

The White Reaper was calling for him and Leeha decided to accept it.

“Now that it’s like this, should I go back to my dragon form!? Even if my little guy goes wild, if I breathe fire, what-”

“Oh, no. What’s the point of burning your soul too recklessly? Hehe, Blaugrunn is done now.”

“Huh? Done?”

“Let’s just go back now.”

To hear his story, one must earn his approval. One must deal with him in the way he desires.

Using large-scale magic or the dragon’s breath will not earn his approval.

“Go back? Just like that?”

“Yes. And Blaugrunn doesn’t need to come anymore.”

“W-what do you mean by that?”

“Next time… I’ll have to come alone.”

1:1 sniping battle.

Leeha steeled his resolve.

Just a little preparation is needed.

“Leeha, great, became Leeha. Oh, nowadays it’s ‘Ha Leeha’, right? It’ll be fun, won’t it?”

Leeha raised an eyebrow as he heard Blaugrunn muttering incomprehensible words. After Leeha and Blaugrunn tidied up the surroundings, they teleported. After staunchly preventing Blaugrunn from following them, Leeha logged out. He needed advice on Counterattack 00406 against 5010108.


Ppo* “Don’t skimp on money and buy something big!”

“Oh, don’t worry. Do you really think I’d go to Sergeant Kim’s house empty-handed?”

“It’s not about going empty-handed! Don’t buy some weird stuff just for show. Get something substantial. Even if they say to come after dinner, discreetly slip away before the meal without causing a fuss-”

“Okay, okay. It seems like my mom still thinks I’m twelve. I’ll go and come back!”

Leeha smiled as he walked out the front door.

At that moment, Leeha, who had briefly returned home for lunch, met his mother who was about to leave. Looking at Leeha, who was wearing clothes to go out for the first time in a while, their mother sparkled her eyes and asked the reason, and Leeha eventually had to spill the truth.

“You’re meeting a guest on December 30th. Are you going out for no reason when you must be busy?”

As soon as logging out of Middle Earth, Leeha found Sergeant Kim.

Even though it had been a long time since they last talked, the teacher didn’t hold back.

“There were a few curse words mixed in, but.”

Upon receiving the message to come quickly without looking around, Leeha left home in a hurry.

“Where should I look… something substantial and big… not a holiday gift but an end-of-year present, what should I do”, Leeha said, going into a mart near Sergeant Kim’s house to choose a gift.

They finally pressed the bell after holding a meat set and a fruit set heavily.

“Sergeant Kim! Hi there!”

But before the bell sound ended, there was no sign of the front door opening. Leeha pressed the bell again.

“Sergeant-nim~ Hi there… What’s going on?”

Leeha carefully put his ear to the front door, Leeha heard banging sounds coming from inside the house.

After a moment, he could figure out what the sound was. The opening of the front door, and Sergeant Kim’s face dropping pearls, was evidence of that.

“Hah, hah… these! You said you’d come by 2!”

“Isn’t it polite to come 30 minutes early?”


“That’s, that’s nonsense! That’s only during training! Ugh, it’s hot.”

“Are you hot on December 30th?”

“Because of you— Oh, no. What do you want?”

As Sergeant Kim was about to say something but swallowed it, Leeha chuckled.

Even without hearing it, Leeha could easily predict what Sergeant Kim had been up to all this time. Though he had grumbled when Leeha came, there was no way he could actually dislike it. Having suddenly started cleaning the house and preparing to meet the guest(?), he couldn’t help but to be a bit flustered. His tone seemed like he might scold Leeha on the spot, but the look in Sergeant Kim’s eyes as he gazed at Leeha was infinitely gentle.

“Hey! Are you going to leave the guest out there like that?”

“Oh, right. Come in. It’s so humble to have someone precious in such a modest place, my goodness.”

“What are you talking about, sergeant-nim?”

Leeha looked puzzled, and Sergeant Kim got irritated.

“So, are you saying a precious person came to this humble place?”

“Th-that’s not what I mea—”

“Hehe, come on in.”

After observing Leeha’s bewildered expression, he entered the house with a satisfied smile. The wife of Sergeant Kim, who was standing in front of the entrance, chuckled as she looked at Leeha.

“Oh my, who is this? When you’re in military uniform, you look like a complete gentleman, but now you look even younger! Looking good!”

“Madam, it’s been a while. Here, I brought this…”

“Oh, did you buy something like this again? Thank you, I’ll enjoy it.”

It was not just because of Leeha’s gift. Even as she accepted it, sergeant Kim’s wife’s eyes were constantly fixed on Leeha’s face and legs. There was no way she didn’t know about Leeha’s accident.

A mixture of worry and reassurance filled her gaze, which was enough for Leeha to understand.

“Did you buy something nice? You didn’t buy some cooking ingredients again, did you? Soup, meat for grilling, fish, what else?”

“Honey! Why would you say that?”


Sergeant Kim scolded Leeha’s teasing while unable to find a way to react to his wife. Seeing the couple, who hadn’t changed at all since their military days, Leeha couldn’t help but smile.

Sergeant Kim, who seemed like he would kill his trainees, and his wife would come to them an take care of them like a mother. That was Leeha’s memory of ‘Sergeant Kim’s wife.’

“Sergeant, really. Who do you think I am.”

“Who else but you, you little rascal. Sit down.”

Leeha felt like he had returned to the army. He noticed the Middle Earth connection device placed in one corner of the living room. After some small talk about how things have been, whether ‘Dinosaur’ was used well, and if there were any issues, Leeha finally brought up the main topic.

“White Reaper? Shimo Hayha? Are you talking about the Finnish sniper?”

“Yes. And in Middle Earth, they call him Hayha.”

“When I was serving, we just called him Hayha. That’s why I felt annoyed the first time I saw your name.”

“Hehe, do you have to be annoyed about that?”

“Anyway, about reverse sniping… It really is an interesting game.”

The sniper duel inspired by the legendary sniper NPC. As the conversation turned to the showdown, sergeant Kim’s expression also became more serious.

“So, how did it go?”

“I just got ambushed. I couldn’t do anything since I couldn’t see where the shots were coming from.”

“Hehe, that’s the way it goes. Just having the name isn’t enough to be a sniper! Do you think you can get back at Shimo?”

Sergeant Kim looked as delighted as if he had become a White Reaper, or rather, he seemed closer to enjoying the confusion and pain of Leeha.

“The barrel flame isn’t visible, the camouflage is flawless, and even if you try to locate it using the game system, you won’t find it. What should I do?”

“Well, in the real world, using Gunfire Locator to find him is the fastest way. You draw the primary position through lenses on the tip of the vocal tract, pick the secondary position by detecting sound in each direction to obtain trigonometry, and cross-check. I saw the US military guys using it during deployment, and it was truly amazing.”

“… I doubt there is something like that in the Middle Earth.”

“Could you give some more helpful words? I almost spat out everything to the very end of the throat. But Sergeant Kim just kept on smiling.”

As their eyes met, Leeha’s expression began to grow stiffer.

“From what you were saying earlier, you seem proud of getting hit three times…”

“Ness.”

“He’s dead.”

“W-what are you t—”

“I said he’s dead.”

Sergeant Kim’s wife abruptly interjected with a heavy word, trying to erase it, but his demeanor remained unchanged.

Sergeant Kim’s once set expression was now turning into anger. It was enough to make Leeha feel flustered as he stared at him.

“Do you take pride in being shot three times by a sniper? Even after being hit three times, you couldn’t pinpoint the enemy’s position… then what’s left?”

“Indeed, that’s just a game. A very well-made game, indeed. I find it entertaining enough to still be playing. However, if you think of it as sniping, you have to take it seriously.”

“Yes, sir.”

Leeha nodded. It was true that Leeha had been too casual, counting on Blaugrunn’s presence and believing in his own abilities.

Since facing the difficulty of the New Continent, he thought there would be no one above to defeat on the Grand Continent with its level 400 monsters. It was a conceited notion.

That was the mistake borne of arrogance, and Sergeant Kim was keen in pointing it out just by listening to Leeha’s story.

“Be very careful. Sometimes you may act recklessly. And you used to be fearful. That’s a very important element.”

“Is being fearful a compliment or an insult?”

Leeha chuckled, tilting his head.

“Indeed. It’s said that carefulness is an essential element that cannot be left out for a sniper. But that’s a story in the real world. What about you in the game? Well, just by hearing what you say, I can tell. Are you afraid of enemy bullets? If that were a real situation? Are you prepared to never see your loved ones again the moment a bullet hits your body? No.”

“While it may sound like advice to play the game that way, when it comes to sniping… if you can’t maintain that level of tension and realism! You’ll never be able to defeat the White Reaper for the rest of your life.”

Sergeant Kim spoke decisively.

Leeha felt a sharp pang from his resolute words even though he had no idea the level of the ghost modeled after the White Reaper. Despite that, he felt the weight of such conclusive statements.

Sergeant Kim was the most exceptional individual Leeha knew in sniping. Because it was him saying so, Leeha could sense what the fundamental issue was.

“So… does that mean not to use defensive measures? To defeat him, should I…”

“Think about it. It’s good to risk your life once. But can you maintain tension by using such skills?”

“That’s right…”

Leeha, biting his lips, contemplated. If spells like 『Platinum Shield』 or Blaugrunn’s magic were cast on him, he would take the lead. He would extend his body first to guide the enemy’s bullets.

Because that was the most ‘comfortable’ way. There would be no continued tension when one foot was hit and facing death.

“Maybe this time, the White Reaper was deceived and let it slide. But if it happens like that next time, the White Reaper won’t shoot you at all. You said you must catch him? That’s why I said you won’t catch him in your lifetime. How can you catch him when he doesn’t reveal himself?”

“That’s true.”

Leeha opened his eyes roundly and nodded his head. The White Reaper was not just a simple monster but one form of the White Reaper.

In the Middle Earth with a learning effect, after realizing that even after eating several bullets, Leeha wouldn’t die?

Would Leeha even notice even if he was discovered?

‘Probably just hide. Although he’s a bloodthirsty ghost, the fact that he’s moving quickly after a shot means he’s thinking beyond.’ Sergeant Kim was touching on aspects that Leeha hadn’t even thought of. Leeha thought it was a good point, but the fundamental question remained unanswered.

“Well then, I will fight without rest like a professional. But… how do I fight when I can’t see the enemy? Since I definitely can’t disguise ourselves…”

“Believe.”

“What?”

Sergeant Kim adjusted his posture and looked into Leeha’s eyes.

Leeha met the eyes of a veteran sniper who had devoted his life to the advancement and training of military snipers.

“Leeha, sniping isn’t about shooting what you see.”

There was no passion in the eyes of the veteran sniper. If one could find passion burning in the eyes of the young, in the eyes of the old sniper, there was something left after burning everything.

It was clearly different from passion. But like frozen water, it remained unshaken and solid, taking on a specific form.

It was something only those who had reached the pinnacle of their life’s dedication could possess. Maybe it could be called ‘belief’. When Leeha thought about this, sergeant Kim said, “Believe and shoot.”

Leeha’s mind went blank. It felt like two extreme ends met in his mind.

(To be continued…)

Leeha in Hangeul is 하이하 and Shimo Hayha is 시모 하이하.
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‘To trust… and shoot……’

Leeha mumbled.

Even after coming home, sergeant Kim’s words wouldn’t leave Leeha’s mind. He had intended to seek advice, return home, and immediately log into Middle Earth to subdue the White Reaper before December 31st!

That was Leeha’s basic plan. However, after hearing Sergeant Kim’s words, he couldn’t bring himself to log into Middle Earth. Leeha felt betrayed by everything he had believed in.

‘He didn’t say those things during training. The words I heard at the NCO School were different.’

A typical sniper doesn’t engage in solo play. Unlike Leeha’s movements in Middle Earth, snipers and spotters move together in pairs or sometimes in a group of three in real life.

Isn’t the sniper the one who reads the wind and distance, trusts the spotter, adjusts the scope clicks based on their information, sets the zero point towards the target, and fires?

Leeha excelled in both fields. Yet, he couldn’t recall hearing the words Sergeant Kim had spoken today in any training he had received before.

‘Rather, I remember hearing these kinds of words elsewhere.’

He had heard them in Middle Earth. Miss Elizabeth, the predecessor of 『Accuracy』. Wasn’t it one of the most absurd remarks Leeha had heard when he learned the curve shot from her?

‘To trust and shoot… But I never expected to hear that from Sergeant Kim.’

Leeha tossed and turned on his bed. Trust and shoot didn’t simply mean to shoot wherever his heart desired. It was a statement grounded in certainty.

Snipers belong to a global community, one species. It means their thoughts align as well. Especially for snipers at the top of their game. So, if you believe, you’ll know where the enemy will shoot from.

The moment you see the enemy, observe them, you become your own target. Do you understand?

No, what do you mean by that… It means to shoot yourself! It’s not that easy in the world!

“Haah…‥ It’s not easy at all. Shooting myself? Thinking the same thing?”

The higher the sniper, the more their thoughts and actions seem to align. They may have known it in their head, but applying it and pulling the trigger is never an easy task. When a sniper faces an enemy, do they shoot with the belief that there will be one there? The moment they shoot, their position is compromised. If there’s no enemy at that spot, they’ll be the one to die. Isn’t that a gamble with their life? For those who learned that sniping is not about gambling, being told to believe and shoot held the opposite meaning.

“What’s the difference between shooting after betting on odd or even and shooting after some belief, sergeant!?”

Leeha blamed himself for being tongue-tied. He should have asked then, even if it meant getting scolded by Sergeant Kim. However, he didn’t. Completely overwhelmed by Sergeant Kim’s momentum and with his mind in chaos, he couldn’t gather his thoughts.


The White Reaper? A splendid person indeed. Still a great figure in the world of snipers, but he is nothing more than a specter of the past. Since that day, the rules and principles of engagement between snipers have evolved significantly. Yes? And you are the best among all who completed that training, a 『Modern Sniper』. And guess what, you learned it from me, the most outstanding instructor in the history of the army! You will never succumb to 『Ghosts of the Past』! Wait, a moment ago I said the White Reaper wouldn’t stand a chance against you—well, not now. But if you pull yourself together… you won’t, Leeha. Leeha touched his chest. With that statement, sergeant Kim made a fist and gently pressed Leeha’s chest. Despite the lack of force in the action, it felt heavy and painful.

“Phew, anyway… since Sergeant Kim is not in his right mind.”

Wanting to know what had happened while he was on deployment, Leeha had no choice but to get up and head home, as he had been lying in bed replaying those words in his mind.

“To challenge, you must fully understand the meaning… Ugh, I’m going crazy. Feels like going out for something and coming back with something stuck to you. It’s already the evening of December 30th, and I need to solve it by the end of the year—” Leeha’s body sprung up as if on a spring. Using the strong recoil to rise, he grabbed the calendar. Today is December 30th, and it’s already around 6 p.m. So, it means that December 30th is ending soon. Then, what about tomorrow?

“Oh, oh! Tomorrow is December 31st? What? Why?”

Today being December 30th, it was only natural for tomorrow to be December 31st. He was so bewildered that he didn’t even know who or what he was questioning.

“Tomorrow is Ram Hwayeon’s day! Oh, darn it! Now of all times!”

Hurriedly, he rushed to turn on his computer. But wasn’t it just a few days ago that reservations for decent restaurants were already fully booked?

“No, no. Please, buddha, God, anyone!”

Muttering nonsensical words, he desperately dialed the phone numbers of famous eateries, hoping to secure at least one reservation, but life isn’t that easy.

Even after repeatedly calling until his smartphone battery ran out, there was no success. Now, at a point where there seemed to be no place available except for tiny establishments, it was already past 9 p.m. on December 30th. The crisis loomed.

He decided to believe in the last resort.

Kijung: Wh-What…what is it that I want? Did you think all wishes can come true by wishing?

Leeha: Stop, just stop. Don’t you know any good places nearby?

Kijung: Oh, come on. Asking me for good dating spots, huh? Aren’t you the social butterfly? You’re in the Business Department! There should be plenty of students around! Don’t you have friends?

Quickly responding to Leeha’s agitated voice, he said nothing more, leaving both of them hurt.

Leeha: Oh… I see…sorry.

How many real friends did Leeha have if all he did was play Middle Earth Online? Inside the game, it might be different, but outside, there was hardly any difference between him and Leeha.

Kijung: If we go to that fancy grill place, will Ram Hwayeon be upset?”

Leeha: Maybe she’ll send an assassin or something as a joke. Argh, what do I do?!”


Kijung: I don’t know. It’s your thing, so figure it out yourself. If it doesn’t work out, how about Auntie’s restaurant? Her cooking is great! And it’s a chance to pay a visit! I dropped by during the grand opening, and it was neat inside.

Leeha: What? You crazy! Are you seriously suggesting that?”

Reacting with a start, he shouted furiously. What kind of recommendation was it to suggest his friend’s mother’s restaurant?

But soon, Leeha’s voice turned serious.

Kijung: Why? Seeing how Ram Hwayeon wants to spend the year-end together, she must have feelings for you, right? Then it’s a chance to introduce her to Auntie as well! It’s a good idea! You never know how things work out, right?

Leeha: Don’t…don’t try to persuade me… I warned you not to convince me.

Kijung: No, really! Think about it! Hyung, do you have Ram Hwayeon’s number? Send her a text! Who knows, she might actually be looking forward to it? How many good places to eat are there in Seoul anyway? Hong Kong probably has more delicious options! Ram Hwayeon might be secretly hoping to meet Hyung’s acquaintances! Huh? That’s probably not it, right?

Leeha was at a loss for words. As the thought that it was absurd crossed his mind, it also made sense, which made him lower his head with a sigh.

Leeha: This is ridiculous! It’s ridiculous!

He then shook his head.

Leeha: Noisy! I almost tripped over.

If he continued like this, he would end up in an embarrassing situation. Clearing his throat, he continued, “There’s no way! I don’t know any good places to eat! Then I’ll just call it off!”

Kijung: Wait! Hyung! What time tomorrow and where!?

Kijung’s voice came through the phone, but he hung up.

Leeha: Kijung, making unnecessary comments! Just going to eat, what’s all this about!

He paced around the room.

Like a frantic puppy, he spun around in place, but his thoughts were still in disarray, and time continued to pass.

‘What should I do? A commoner experience? Should I just go around with that? It’s okay, if things don’t work out, I know a few local eateries too! When did Ram Hwayeon ever try pig bulgogi! Hehe! Let it be as it will be! Or should I order a spicy jjang dish! Try Korean spiciness!’

His wavering thoughts began to erupt in a haphazard manner.

With his thoughts still not organized, he welcomed the morning of December 31st.


“Hoo-oo-oo-oo…~… Hoo-oo-oo-oo.”

He stood in front of the departure gate, taking deep breaths. Five minutes left until arrival time.

Considering Ram Hwayeon’s time management strategy and the private jet of the Ram Long Group, she would come out without a single mistake.

“Besides, this time she’s coming without Ram Hwajung, right? No bodyguards! Does that mean she’s coming alone? Or maybe just with a few bodyguards?”

He was more nervous than he thought.

What particularly showed the difference from when she visited Korea on a group level was the presence of the press. None of the journalists from the political and business circles were here, demonstrating how much Ram Hwayeon’s visit to Korea was being kept secret.

“Maybe there won’t even be bodyguards… If… if an accident happens…”

He recalled the chairman of the Ram Long Group he met in Hong Kong. If something were to happen to Ram Hwayeon in Korea, Leeha was confident that he would be in big trouble.

“Maybe I should’ve called Kijung instead. Ugh, this is driving me crazy!”

His throbbing heart was making quite a noise. He fidgeted with the picket he was holding.

Since he couldn’t make a reservation at a good restaurant as Ram Hwayeon preferred, his strategy was to score points in a different way! He spent the night creating a fancy picket called 『Welcome Ram Hwayeon』 by fumbling around with nonexistent materials! But he couldn’t bear to use it! It was embarrassing – he felt shy… and self-conscious…

‘Let’s write it in Chinese characters so people can’t recognize it!’ he chuckled to himself, but then realized that all Chinese foreigners might recognize it.

“Rather than doing that, it’s better to hide… Oh no, time’s up!”

Ziiing-! The time Ram Hwayeon mentioned was approaching, and the departure gate began to open alarmingly. Quickly hiding the picket behind his back, he hurried through the gate. Since she was coming on a private jet, he predicted that no one other than Ram Hwayeon and her bodyguards would disembark. But the reality?

“Huh?”

Asian people were coming out of the departure gate, but they weren’t related to the Ram Long Group; they were ordinary individuals.

“What? Why? The time is… correct, right? Oh! Maybe the arrival time of the private jet and another plane were the same?”

Wasn’t it unlikely that only one plane would land at Incheon International Airport? Leeha decided to wait for Ram Hwayeon again, reflecting on their own short-sightedness. However, as more than ten or twenty people passed by, there was no one who seemed to be related to the Ram Rong group. Leeha found themselves scrutinizing those in suits, wondering if they were bodyguards, but Ram Hwayeon was nowhere near them.

“It’s been… quite some time, hasn’t it?”

Leeha chuckled while looking at the wristwatch. It was then that a voice came from behind them.

“What time is it?”

“9:08… Ugh!”

Startled, Leeha turned around. The voice of the woman who suddenly asked about the time was very familiar.

“Oof! Why are you screaming like that!?”

“Wha-what?! When did you—when did you come out?”

“Even after seeing us coming out, you stood there dumbfounded, and still couldn’t recognize us?! Seriously, couldn’t recognize us?”

“It’s not th-that—my mind—”

“Oppa.”

“-Cheog! Ram Hwajung?”

Leeha felt the woman’s arm wrapping around their waist. The reason Leeha didn’t recognize the sisters was that their hair color was not the usual mix of red or blue, but instead a solid black. The two sisters, with their dyed black hair and sunglasses, were dragging their suitcases. Most importantly, there was no sign of any bodyguards with them.

“What’s going on?”

“I’m on vacation until January 1st. Let’s go. Is the car waiting? Where’s the hotel?”

“Wait, hold on! What—what are you talking about?”

Seeing Leeha, who was so flustered that formal language slipped out involuntarily, ran Hwayeon furrowed her brows.

“For the vacation. You said you’ll take responsibility until December 31st?”

“No, that respon—wait. That responsibi-”

Walking toward the exit of the airport, ran Hwayeon cut off Leeha, who was struggling to speak properly.

“What are you doing? Not coming?”

“O, oppa.”

With Ram Hwayeon urging in front and Ram Hwajung clinging to Leeha’s side, how should Leeha even begin to process this situation! He couldn’t help but look back and forth between the two women, unable to close his mouth.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 761

				
Arcane Sniper 761

“So, you two just came to Korea without any bodyguards?”

“The private jet was nice, but flying first-class wasn’t bad either. The lobby was a bit cramped, though.”

“… Excuse me, are you going to respond to what I’m saying?”

“Korea is cold.”

“Um, excuse me? Are you going to answer me?”

Despite being caught off guard by their sudden appearance, Leeha managed to hail a taxi and headed to Seoul.

Despite Leeha’s repeated sighs and questions, the two sisters remained unfazed, not changing their expressions.

“What answer do you want? I mean, it’s just that. You said you were responsible for December 31st. What else do you need?”

“Oh, I get that, but… I mean, I haven’t prepared anything else… trusting me, I mean?”

Ram Hwayeon responded as she sucked on the straw in her banana milk, “This tastes good. Hwayeong, you should try it too.”

“Yeah, banana. I like it.”

Ram Hwajung received the banana milk from Ram Hwayeon and also sipped through the straw. Leeha looked back and forth between the two with a blank expression.

Trust me? Responsible? Did I ever say such things?

Above all, isn’t this not a matter on such a scale?

Thinking about it wouldn’t provide any answers.

What should I do now that they’ve already come?

“… I thought Ram Hwayeon was a smart person…”

What on earth is going on here?

“No matter what, you should have brought bodyguards!”


Could it be that they’re not aware of their own positions? Leeha recalled the events Ram Hwajung experienced in Hong Kong.

Ram Long Group’s business is not just at the level of simple trade.

How can people who conduct global, mega-group level businesses move like this!

“Um, alright. It’s so cold that it’s actually refreshing.”

“It’s cold. I like it.”

“Right? Oh, by the way, where are we going?”

Ram Hwayeon asked Leeha, pulling Ram Hwajung, who was sitting beside her, into a hug. Leeha wanted to ask them. What do you want me to do? How am I supposed to find a hotel that meets your standard?

After struggling for a long time, Leeha finally made a decision: to do nothing.

“… I should go home first…”

“What? Y-Your, home? Are you talking about your home?”

“Yeah! Not some hotel! Imagine telling someone who’s never been to a motel to suddenly make a hotel reservation, what would they do!”

“Wait! Home! That’s a bit…”

Ram Hwayeon’s eyes widened like fists, and shortly after, even her breathing became rough.

“U-Unnie, I’m out of breath.”

“Ah, sorry, Hwajung.”

Whether it was due to being drawn into Goak’s embrace or Ram Hwajung’s suffering, she was struggling in her sister’s arms.

And then, silence.

How should one handle this awkward and bewildering atmosphere?

Vroooom………

Amidst all this, the van did not stop. Leeha could only hope that Kijung would come out on time.


“Kijung, please!”

Leeha’s only helper. At the same time, Kijung, too, was getting ready to go out chirpily.

“Hehehe, hehe, you called me, right? Leeha hyung, you called me~?”

Leeha had no idea what Kijung was thinking, just praying silently for him to arrive on time. It is a common tendency for people to head towards what they consider the safest place when in a state of panic.

“Oh, thank you. Call me next time!”

“Yes, yes, sure.”

As a result, Leeha, ran Hwayeon, and Ram Hwajung arrived near Leeha’s house around noon on December 31st. A cold wind was blowing in the spot where the taxi driver had left after driving the van. Should they book a motel near the house? What about a hotel? And the luggage? Should they drop off the suitcases at home first?

“No, we should book accommodation and move your luggage there, right?”

Leeha’s thoughts were spiraling in an endless loop, trying to figure out the best plan. If they had asked Ram Hwayeon about the hotel she usually stayed at and headed there, it wouldn’t have been an issue to book a room for her.

However, with Leeha’s thoughts still caught in an infinite loop from the van, there was no way for logical thinking to prevail. Since Leeha mentioned going home, ran Hwayeon had also been unable to think straight… the situation was getting worse and worse.

“It’s cold.”

“Uh, yeah. Let’s go inside. Let’s drop off the luggage first and have some food, fooood, food?”

The screams that woke up Leeha’s chatty mind, broken like a malfunctioning radio, came from behind.

“Hey!”

“Ha! Kijung – Kijung!”

Leeha ran towards Kijung as soon as he saw him, throwing himself at him as if reuniting on a battlefield. Ram Hwayeon chuckled at the sight of the affectionate siblings.

“What are you doing?”

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi! Ram Hwajung-ssi! It’s been a long time!”

“Long time, indeed. Master Kay.”

“Holy Knight.”


“Oh, you recognize me. Hehe, yes, I am Master Kay, Holy Knight.”

Kijung greeted leisurely compared to Leeha’s agitated demeanor when interacting with women.

“Have you not eaten?”

“No, no one escorted us.”

“Well, don’t worry anymore! The Star Scholar has arrived! Shall we go to the restaurant? It’s cold, so let’s take off the translator for a while and wrap your scarf properly.”

Kijung took the carry-on bag from Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung’s hands, leading them. Ostensibly, he had them remove the translators from their ears due to the weather, but Leeha couldn’t shake off the dreadful feeling as he observed Kijung’s enigmatic smile.

“Ki, Kijung? Where are you going?”

“Hyung, why would I come all the way here just to go somewhere. Hehehe.”

“Y-you!”

Leeha’s expression stiffened suddenly. He instinctively understood where Kijung’s skilled steps were leading them.

“No, you can’t! You can’t do that!”

Only then did Leeha realize that calling for Kijung was a mistake, but the die had been cast.

“When are we leaving? It’s cold, let’s go quickly.”

“Oppa, I’m hungry”, even without a translator, the girls understood what he was saying and looked at him.

When Leeha glanced at Ram Hwajung, who was rubbing her stomach, and Ram Hwayeon, who stood coldly, he could no longer stop the merciless (?) advance of the sisters.

A moment later, the place where Kijung entered chuckling… was a very, very familiar place to Leeha too.

“Oh my, Kijung!? Leeha is here too? What a surprise? Did you come out because it’s the end of the year?”

“Auntie! I brought a guest!”

“A guest?”

* clang * laugh…

Leeha’s mother looked at Kijung and Leeha’s faces and the two Asian women with Western features behind them.

The 『Female Friend』 Leeha brought.

“Mother, wait for a moment. It’s not like that—” Leeha tried to explain first when she saw her mother’s expression change, but it was too late! Leeha’s personality didn’t come out for nothing.

Leeha’s mother hastily shouted to the guests around, “Oh, we’re closed today! Closed! I won’t take any money, so please leave quickly! Hurry!”

“Wow! Boss? Why are you suddenly like this?”

Leeha’s mother, who chased out everyone in the restaurant within a minute, locked the door and headed straight to the kitchen.

“What’s going on? Is this a restaurant? And what did you say?”

“Smell. I like it.”

Without a translator, they couldn’t clearly grasp the situation.

Kijung’s ‘big picture’ of taking off the translator and telling the sisters to wear scarves only went this far!

He motioned for the Ram sisters to put on the translator and ushered the girls to the table.

Setting the cutlery, pouring water, and other actions took about three minutes. In the meantime, Leeha’s mother, who was wearing an apron, suddenly transformed into someone else and came out of the kitchen.

“Auntie… I just-”

“Mom… it’s not like that…”

“It’s not! It’s this stupid thing! You should have at least told me!”

The mother tapped Leeha on the back and greeted Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung.

“Welcome. I’m Leeha’s mother.”

As the stainless steel cup slipped from Ram Hwayeon’s hand, Kijung was laughing with tears streaming down his face.

Even if he were to get shot with a rifle from Middle Earth, his expression was at a level that would not have shown up. Seeing Ram Hwayeon, a poker-faced master, so flustered that she couldn’t even hide her expression.

“I-I apologize, mother!”

As Hwayeon promptly rose from her seat and bowed 90 degrees, her actions made Ram Hwajung’s eyes widen in disbelief.

“Uh… Unni??”

At least in Hwajung’s memory, aside from their own father, the Chairman of the Ram Long Group, never had anyone, her sister had never lowered her head at such an angle to anyone before.

If there was such a thing as “something that could never happen”, wouldn’t it be this?

December 31st.

In a small Korean restaurant, a shocking incident was unfolding like a domino effect.

***

“-So, Kidd, if you could take care of that.”

“Isn’t that something Ha Leeha does well?”

“If you don’t think you can do it, you don’t have to. And Leeha is currently logged out, you know better than anyone.”

At that moment, Shin Nara smiled brightly and talked with the man in front of her. With his fedora pulled down low, sharp eyes shot from his shadowed face.

“You wouldn’t have fallen for such provocations like you used to.”

“Wow, people change so much, don’t they? It’s true about Kidd, right? If I provoke you again, will you respond?”

As Nara looked at Kidd with surprise, Kidd shrugged and counterattacked her provocation.

“I wouldn’t. If I engage now and you log out, wouldn’t it be obvious I’d be even more tired?”

While she was cool-headed in all other situations, she couldn’t help but be awkward around Kidd.

“W-What!? Fine- then, let’s engage right now-”

“Alright, alright. Let our Dame Shin calm down a bit. So Kidd, are you going to help?”

Just a moment ago, Shin Nara was ready to charge, but when Lark intervened, she made no further movement. It was, in fact, Kidd who was surprised by the scene.

Normally, she would have passed by Lark’s neck with her blade in that situation but being able to stop her with just ‘that’ kind of action?

“Kidd?”

“Ah, I will consider it.”

“There’s no need to think about it. I don’t want to provoke Kidd like our Dame Shin, I just lack ‘eyes’, that’s all. I don’t want to share this level of secret with anyone, and it’s not like Kidd would lose out either. Since you’re under Fibiel, and the place is in the Far South Desert of Fibiel, and the atmosphere suits you well. Western gunslinger, bang! Oh? That’s the feeling, right?”

Lark’s eloquence shook Kidd’s mind. While Shin Nara and Lark were setting up guard arrangements using NPCs, not every place was under their control. Especially in villages with special NPCs, the appearance of the Capital Defense Knights alone could lead to confusion, so the power of the users was crucial.

“… So, in exchange for the latest information on Chiyou, Igor, and Faust, do we have to protect the village for three days?”

“Of course! I believe you won’t break the promise. By working for Fibiel, your country’s reputation will rise.”

“That’s not necessary. I’m just curious about Igor and Faust… since they’ve become strong enough that you need my help.”

With a flick of his coat, Kidd entered the conference room with his crystal ball. As he pulled out the amethyst, Lark shouted, “The location is 『Dead Wood』, the targets to watch out for are the village and nearby Copper Dragon Lair! I’ll provide you with detailed information about the targets later!” (To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

I remember when Hwahong and Byulcho had a war and Hwajung and Kijung were like sworn enemies. And now, they can comfortably talk to each other. Even Kidd and Nara are getting along, at least they don’t fight when they see each other anymore. Oh, how times have flown.
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Shuaaa…!

He immediately activated the crystal ball. In the southernmost desert of Fibiel, there was a small village and Dragon Lair, where once Basillisk had been defeated in one blow.

If there was no special quest route, except for a few users related to the quest, it was a village of NPCs where there were few passing by, making it a place where most people didn’t even feel the need to deploy defense forces if they hadn’t determined the goals of Igor and Faust. Kidd organized his thoughts as soon as he arrived.

“Even though I talked about Lugermon, Ha Leeha, you didn’t chase after it. Luger, who has already logged in, feels wronged to the point of pursuing me… In the meantime, the place you turned towards is the Shazrashian Federation.”

Kidd was meticulous in tracking the movements of Leeha and Luger. He expected Leeha to immediately chase after Manticore-Luger, but Leeha did not.

And he had recently learned that Igor and Faust had been running amok on the old continent to stop them. Even so, Shazrashian? Isn’t it too inefficient of a route to move to stop Igor and Faust?

“You wouldn’t have moved without any purpose. Then what was the reason for you to go there?”

In the small and humble village with even no guards, there were not many buildings. Kidd glanced around briefly and headed towards the pub. Without a doubt, the pub in such a small village was the most convenient place to obtain information.

“In such a small village… that doesn’t seem to have any particular significance, what is the reason for sending me out?”

Kidd took off his hat and lowered his head. He had thought that if there were any troubles here, the duo would likely be present, but there had been no sign of them so far. As he leaned against the swing door, gunfire rang out from inside the pub. Taaaaang—!

It was the sound of musket gunpowder exploding, a sound not heard in a long time.

Kidd instinctively drew his Crimson Geckos. He had a hunch that the musket gunpowder explosion in the small village pub was definitely not an accident. However, Kidd felt that the atmosphere inside the pub was somewhat agitated. People were sitting around a round table and some were excitedly crossing their arms behind them.

The white smoke from the musket was rising there.

“Is this… a gambling den?”

The bustling atmosphere in the pub, as if it were an everyday occurrence, relaxed Kidd’s tension. Kidd naturally joined the crowd. He judged that it would be easy to obtain the information he wanted in this place, the most lively spot in the pub.

“Bill, if you mess around one more time, I won’t let it slide.”

“Mess around? Me? Wahaha!”

Kidd had the belief that he wouldn’t get tangled up in the antics of these unruly NPCs in this small village more than anything else.

“Fight me!”


“Have a duel, a duel!”

The onlookers goaded the gamblers, as if a good show was unfolding before them.

Kidd quickly assessed the situation. The disgruntled look on the 148 with a hat and a musket pistol in hand, the contrasting faces of a scruffy, bearded man, and their shouting. It was enough information to understand how the gambling scene was unfolding.

“That bastard just messed with us again! He thinks we didn’t see the smoke coming out of the pouch just now-”

Clang-

“Got any proof.”

-Thud-

It happened in the blink of an eye. In that short moment when Kidd turned his eyes away from the gambling table to look elsewhere, the musket pistol was now inside the mouth of the NPC with a hat.

“Huh? What just happe-?”

Kidd’s eyes widened. Yes, he did try to look elsewhere. But even then, missing the hand movement of the NPC?

“Tsk, you sh- sh- you basta- bas-”

“You shouldn’t draw your rifle when you’re defenseless. The only one suffering will be your mouth, not mine. Isn’t that right? Keep yelling, only your mouth will hurt, and paying the price for drawing a rifle means losing teeth and more. Shoo.”

The bearded man chuckled nonchalantly. However, even with broken teeth and blood dripping from the hand of the NPC with a hat, the musket pistol was clearly still clenched. Despite holding the rifle, the expression on the NPC with the hat remained unchanged.

“You- you, you cun-”

“Wanna try it? If you can hit me with the back of your head blown off, that’s fine too! Boss, looks like you’ll have to work hard to clean the blood today! The brain matter is so sticky, it’s hard to clean!”

With the rifle barrel in his mouth, the NPC with a hat couldn’t move recklessly. The situation was clearly a defeat for the NPC with a hat, but their deadlock did not seem to be resolved.

“Do you think I’ll go easy on you even after hearing you say you’ll kill me?”

The cockiness of the hat-wearing NPC only provoked the actions of the bearded NPC. Click, click…! Kidd’s grip tightened gradually as he looked at the finger of the bearded NPC, slowly pulling the trigger of the musket pistol.

“If a gunfight breaks out here… even in a small town, it will get loud.”

So, why did Lark and Shin Nara send him here? Could it be that the NPC with a beard will cause trouble… a special case?


Just as Kidd was about to take a step back, the sunlight poured in through the saloon swing door.

“Stop and let go, wild Bill. It’s an order.”

Upon hearing the heavy voice, the hand of Wild Bill, the bearded man, paused. Onlookers immediately showed tense expressions upon hearing the voice.

“Who is this, isn’t it Sheriff Huff?”

“You don’t have an obligation to pay off gambling debts by cheating. As the sheriff of Deadwood, I order you to put the rifle down.”

Kidd was absorbed in the conversation between the two.

“Wild Bill…? Sheriff Huff?”

Kidd looked at the bearded man’s face and then at the sheriff’s face. There was no need to match faces and names.

“If I don’t put it down, then the f—”

Thunk.

“Ugh, uhh?”

Kidd blinked once again. A musket pistol had somehow appeared at Sheriff Huff’s waist. The rifle barrel of the already pulled musket pistol was pointing towards Wild Bill’s head.

“I have to enforce the law. As a sheriff.”

Kidd quickly shut his mouth that had involuntarily opened.

The relief of not recognizing any users around was an unfamiliar experience. At least one thing was certain – this time, it was truly like nothing he had ever seen before. The movement of pulling out a rifle and aiming at the NPC, who used the musket pistol, was missed. At least within Middle Earth, the very action that Kidd himself was most confident in performing was that action.

“And twice at that!”

The first one was Wild Bill, with a nose as sharp as a knife. The second one was Sheriff Huff, with a forehead quite far apart. Kidd felt a sensation flowing down his spine, though he didn’t have time to confirm whether it was true or not. Shwaaa-…!

It was because of the hologram screen in front of Kidd’s eyes.

『The Good, the Bad, and…

-1』


Description:

“Bill, wild Bill, wild-Bill-Hitchcock. It’s widely known that he’s not your average gambler… What is he after in this small town? If he’s hiding his intentions until the end, I have no choice but to do what I can…”

“That darn Huff. As a sheriff, that guy just cares about money. Just the fact that he got paid by Wyatt Huff in Deadwood means that no gambler can ignore me! If he doesn’t pay up until the end… Oh well. I’ll have to take matters into my own hands.”

The small town of Deadwood is on the edge of a crisis. However, the two who know each other’s skills well are in need of each other’s help. What can you do for the peace of the town?

Content: Meet Wild Bill and Sheriff Huff respectively and listen to their stories

Reward: 6,000 Gold, 820 Experience, the Good, the Bad, and…

-2

Condition for Failure: If either Wild Bill or Sheriff Huff is killed by the other

In case of failure: Return to the original quest route 『Outlaw on the Law, desperado』 – Cancel and return to the original quest route?

Kidd’s expression began to change gradually.

‘Cancelling the quest that was not undertaken, and returning to the original quest route… Ah, by now, you must have met the NPCs, right? That stubborn bastard with the pointed nose is trying to chase away the Sacred Knights as soon as he sees them, and the badge-wearing sheriff is going crazy trying to chase away the Virtue Knights as soon as he sees them! What do you think, Kidd? Can you control them?’

Just then, Lark’s voice resounded.

Kidd couldn’t respond to his words.

It was then that a confirmation assassination flew towards Kidd, who was reading the quest window over and over to make sure what he had seen was true.

Lark: Oh, by the way, when you meet Igor or Faust, you must contact us first. Since you took on the job, you have to do it, as those bastards have a high chance of “second job advancement”, and you definitely can’t handle them alone.

Kidd: Is that so, “second job advancement”?

Lark: Ah-hah, Kidd, are you also a police?”

Lark’s casual words and the hologram screen in front of Kidd’s eyes made him tense.

Kidd: I am a police. This is the first time I am fascinated while playing Middle Earth. What kind of sick hobby is this, locking up the world of “Macaroni Western” in one place?

Lark: What’s that supposed to mean?

However, it wasn’t fear or apprehension driving him.

Even to Lark’s question, Kidd just smiled without answering.

※※ “Blasted son of a gun… cursed…!”

Luger muttered as he made his way towards the Bottleneck’s Smithy, still unable to forget the humiliation he had endured a few days ago when he logged in and heard Kidd’s mocking words.

“Lugermon is your responsibility, Luger.”

“What the heck are you talking about? Lugermon?”

“… Are you going to play dumb?”

“No, I genuinely have no idea what you’re talking about! Damn it, what’s happening to me!”

Stung by a Manticores’s sting and forcibly fused by Ghibrid’s power, how could he forget that time? However, as the person directly involved, Luger couldn’t know how the ‘result’ turned out, and he only heard about it through Kidd’s words.

“A monster? Me? Damn Kidd, what the heck is this Lugermon name!”

Kicking a pebble on the street, Luger’s anger was still not subsided. Never before since starting Middle Earth had he felt such a deep sense of shame.

“You damn Lugermon bastard! You should’ve at least killed Kidd if you were gonna go down like this! Running away!”

Strictly speaking, Kidd and Manticore-Luger didn’t have a showdown. Ghibrid’s intervention made him aware of the Chimaera legion’s retreat, making it impossible for Kidd and Manticore-Luger to engage in a fight. It was more of a suspended match situation than a draw. But Kidd wasn’t one to accept it as it was.

“With wings at your disposal, you’re pretty good at running away.”

“Krrraaa!”

Kidd, in his own irritated state, was soothing his frayed nerves by teasing Luger, but Luger couldn’t grasp that far. Thus, whenever Luger recalled Kidd’s words, he had no way to vent his anger besides yelling into a pillow.

“Beard Brothers! Get me Bottleneck!”

“The boss is off today! If you want bullets, it’s already prepared there.”

Upon entering the Bottleneck’s Smithy and causing a commotion, beard Brothers hesitated in response.

“Huh? Dwarven blacksmiths taking a break on their own accord? You should be working like slaves!”

“If that’s what you think, huh? Our boss is no longer at your level to deal with!”

“That’s right! Thanks to the Lord, how much he has changed!”

Not only the dwarves’ unusual attitude but also their words touched a nerve in Luger.

“The Lord? Are you talking about Leeha? So what happened, then?”

Luger muttered between clenched teeth. Beard Brothers tried to cover up the mistake, but it was too late. Sensing Luger’s heightened sensitivity due to the Lugermon or Manticore-Luger incident, they couldn’t hold back and eventually had to spill everything.

(To be continued…)
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“The White Reaper’s rifle… Legendary-grade, and… synthesis!”

Luger’s steps quickened as he loaded his rifle.

He immediately opened the teleport skill window of the Three Musketeers. Kidd’s location was a small village, deadwood, located at the southern end of Libiel.

“There must be something. Kidd wasn’t the type to waste time. He was one of the users who could plan the optimal route better than anyone else. Isn’t Kidd the one who restrains Luger the most from leaking his route? A guy like that wouldn’t waste time in a town he had never even heard of. Not to mention, if there was something called Lugermon…”

Wouldn’t Kidd want to fight again?

Luger vaguely knew of Kidd’s hidden competitive spirit. Retreating was not in his style at all.

“Leeha, who played tough like that, would log out like this.”

Was he devastated by the disastrous result of the legendary rifle synthesis failure? Luger shook his head.

“If Leeha was the kind of guy who would fall apart because of that, he wouldn’t have made it this far.”

Luger was completely clueless. He didn’t know that Igor and Faust were causing chaos, nor did he have any guesses about why Kidd was there or what happened to Chiyou. His information was so scarce that he couldn’t even speculate.

But, as acknowledged by Leeha and Kidd, his intuition was close to that of a beast.

“What’s happening. These bastards are up to something when I’m not around.”

He couldn’t know. Luger suspected that the other two of the Three Musketeers had acquired specific information, but he didn’t know that this information would bring about very significant changes.

However, he could feel it. Above all, he could smell what he needed to do in the future, where he needed to target his steps. That was Luger’s fear.

Shwaaah…!

Luger immediately teleported.

“Oh my, Luger?”

“Haha, you almost fell over in surprise.”

He had moved to the center of the New Continent, the Corrupted World Tree Forest…


“Are those Byulcho’s minions here? What are they doing here?”

Many of the Ezwen Paladins, including Byulcho, were spread out in various places, standing guard in all directions. Watching them vigilantly monitoring the movements of the Gryphon and Chimera legions, Luger furrowed his brows. They were defending this place to keep an eye on the Gryphon and Chimera legions. Of course, besides this place, the Paladins were lined up along the long defensive line, keeping watch day and night without rest.

“Watch your tongue, scrappy one. Ugh, if it weren’t for Kijung and Leeha being friends with you, I would’ve…”

Luger muttered irritably, finding the most boring part about guard duty being interrupted by Bobae’s sharp tongue. Bobae grumbled seriously, and for two reasons, Luger was taken aback.

“Whose friend am I supposed to be!? Nonsense. And if not a friend… what can you possibly mean to me?”

He was puzzled by being referred to as Leeha’s ‘friend’. And if not a friend? What was the point of it?

“Um, excuse me, Bobae-nim?”

“Ahem, I understand what you’re trying to say, and I agree with your opinion, but provocation is not a good idea, Bobae-yang.”

Trying to lighten the sudden seriousness in the air created by Jin Gonggong and Tale, who suddenly became grave, Bobae didn’t even glance at them.

“Let me help fix your arrogant jerk habits~ This kind of thing. Hehe. Interested?”

As Bobae glared with a drawn bow, Luger immediately raised his Cobalt Blue Python.

“Come on, lady.”

“Did you think I wouldn’t come?”

“Well, just a mom- just a moment! If Hyein-nim isn’t here, and even Bobae-nim is going to do this- Ah!”

The Giant Jin Gonggong was pushed back by the half-sized Bobae walking confidently towards Luger. Everyone was astonished as they watched Bobae approach Luger fearlessly. At that moment, only one Lizardia was baring his teeth.

“Ki, keke… This should be interesting… things are heating up.”

It was unanimously agreed that this was no ordinary situation.

“Always bragging about being in the top ten rankings isn’t always a good idea. Today is the day to thoroughly teach who is superior”, Luger said.

“You’re joking. Let’s be honest here, everyone’s just avoiding you because it’s a hassle to deal with, who actually thinks they lost to you? And what’s so funny about ranking 11th? It’s not much different from being in the top ten, right?!”

Bobae answered back.


“This girl… 9th place?”

Luger no longer waited. The moment he raised his rifle was imminent. Something landed on his back.

His rifle was quickly aimed back at the ground.

“Ahem – Ah, as much as I’d love to watch the two of you fight, it doesn’t seem like the right time for that.”

In his left hand, a pocket that expanded like a water balloon was present, with a small dagger wrapped around his tail.

“Back off, lizard.”

“Step aside, Biyemi. They say I need to give this guy a hard time.”

Luger and Bobae seemed to be communicating with each other, both making an effort to conceal their surprise. In an instant, rushing between them, Biyemi placing her foot on Luger’s back, her presence was impossible to ignore.

“Why do these guys keep popping up in a guild of fewer than 20 members? This kid seemed to have a magic background. Was he a Venom Mage or something?”

“Come to think of it, Biyemi’s previous character was an assassin…”

Luger and Bobae exchanged glances, pondering Biyemi. Of course, Biyemi had no intention of overpowering both of them simultaneously, nor did she have the confidence. She simply had a sense of the two’s personalities and acted accordingly.

“Hehehe, if a fight breaks out, I’ll step in too. Then it won’t be a fair fight anyway. So let’s just refrain from shedding blood between us for no reason. If something happens, how will we face the guild leader later?”

It was obvious that if Biyemi swung his sword, it would be towards Luger.

And the moment he intervened, the outcome would become meaningless.

The same goes for Bobae. Since the topic of surrender was brought up, it was difficult for her to engage in combat recklessly. And if Biyemi intervened, there would be no honor to gain in the first place.

“How boring. Spend your life shooting arrows from behind a lizard.”

Luger let out a fart strong enough to blow sand off the floor before turning around.

“What, what is it? You really-”

“Alright, enough. I don’t want to see Bobae in this state either.”

“Ugh, Tale-oppa!”


Despite the attempts of Biyemi, Bobae, and Jin Gonggong to stop them, Bobae shouted at Luger.

“Luger! You better be ready to die next time we meet!”

However, despite raising her voice in frustration, Luger quietly distanced himself from Bobae. He simply added a motion of extending his right index finger and flicking it back.

“Seriously! That unlucky guy! May he stumble upon a pile of crap! Let him be humiliated by Lugermon!”

Bobae went crazy, but he couldn’t push away Biyemi, Tale, and Jin Gonggong. As Bobae’s cries reverberated through the tainted Forest of the World Tree for a while, Luger ventured into a point where spatial movement was impossible. His destination was the eastern part of the new continent.

※ ※ Luger’s expression was not particularly bright. Though he pretended to coolly brush off Bobae’s provocation, it was because Bobae hit the nail on the head about why he had come here.

“Damn it, that woman! I came here exactly to find that.”

Manticore-Luger.

Following Kidd’s activity and the discovery of Kijung, the existence that started spreading under the name 『Lugermon』.”

The reason for Luger’s arrival in the new continent was simple.

Was it to take responsibility for his mistake? Rather, it was a more personal and narrow-minded reason, but the goal itself was not significantly different.

“I can’t just let that kind of thing roam around.”

What Luger desired was the death of Lugermon. However, he couldn’t recklessly wander around. If he encountered Ghibrid and Chimera legions, there was a high probability he would be defeated again. Should he consider this place a limit in the end?

Luger looked around sadly before turning back. Although quite far, the tainted Forest of the World Tree came into view at the edge of his sightline. In other words, the only option Luger could choose was to patrol primarily in high places with a secure view in all directions and not too far from the tainted forest.

Part of the blame for provoking Bobae lay with Luger as well. He didn’t want to ask Bobae to search the area while he waited, as he didn’t like it even if he died, and he didn’t think this plan would succeed without Bobae’s help.

Luger is one of the people in Middle Earth who most acknowledges Bobae’s abilities, except for Ha Leeha, Shin Nara, and Lark.

From the beginning, provoking Bobae was intended to understand their purpose and movements.

Sitting at the top of the hill, Luger let go of the Cobalt Blue Python. The wind felt refreshing, but his mind was uneasy. He wanted to thoroughly uncover everything, including Kidd’s actions and below.

“White Reaper… another sniper, someone like that. No, that guy had white feathers. Whatever it was, it’s not my concern.”

The important point is what Ha Leeha discovered and did.

What legendary rifle did Ha Leeha find?

Luger’s gaze moved toward the Cobalt Blue Python.

So far, only three 『legendary firearms』 have been revealed. However, during the short time he was logged out, did he discover another legendary rifle and attempt a synthesis with Black Bass?

“Synthesis… that guy is crazy.”

Luger turned his head and spat on the ground, but he was still smiling. Leeha seemed to be attempting something. But what if he had failed?

“Now it’s my turn. If that Leeha bastard could do what he did, then surely I can do it too. Kidd, that sneaky bastard, couldn’t have missed that”, Luger thought aloud.

Luger checked Kidd’s position. He was still lingering in Deadwood. Luger judged that Kidd, being quick-witted, would know a fact that even a newcomer in Gaza City could discern.

“Hmm… But to go to a small town of Fibiel to find a legendary rifle? Isn’t that too foolish?”

Luger chuckled to himself.

As he contemplated, Luger deduced that Leeha and Kidd were currently striving to obtain a 『legendary-grade weapon』 for synthesis! In other words, in Luger’s opinion, Leeha had failed, and Kidd was in the process of success!

With this realization, Luger felt a bit relieved. His presence on the new continent stemmed from a simple and instinctive action, but if judged by the outcome of his decision, it was remarkably accurate.

“A 『legendary-grade rifle』? To find that, you naturally have to start from here. If they created monsters targeting me…”

Luger mused. What kind of rifle was being wielded by Manticore-Luger, aka 『Lugermon』?

“That’s precisely the legendary-grade one. And…”

he trailed off.

Luger continued to use a skill to enhance his vision, gazing at a specific point in the sky before raising his Cobalt Blue Python.

“God is on my side. You’ve arrived, manticore!”

As soon as he lifted the barrel, he quickly began to reload, and his gun was already accurately aimed at the Manticore.

At the distance of 1.2 kilometers, there was no problem at all! Especially at such an ambiguous altitude – 『Artillery Enhancement: Flat Cannon』, and… a time fuse. There’s no need to elevate the angle. No need to penetrate it.

What’s needed now is just to make his presence known!

“Go call your friends, you damn baldy.”

Whoosh!

A backblast poured out behind Luger.

Of course, what shot out even faster was the shell from the Cobalt Blue Python.

“Grawwr?”

The Manticore turned its head toward something flying at it. There was no time to dodge. (To be continued…)
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Kugoo—…!

‘Haha, since it wasn’t meant to penetrate in the first place, it was aimed to explode.’

Observing the explosion that occurred in the air about 1.26 kilometers away, Luger wore a satisfied expression on his face. It was a projectile designed to explode after a certain amount of time, utilizing a new type of shell made for explosions. It effectively exerted its power near the Manticore. The staggering Manticore in midair soon began to fly rapidly in the opposite direction. Watching this, Luger nodded his head.

“Alright, off you go:”

He never intended to kill it from the beginning. There was no need to kill the Manticore he stumbled upon here.

“Ghibrid… must be feeling restless to head west.”

Luger could tell this from his encounter with Ghibrid. The direction of the Chimera army was clearly westward. Why haven’t they headed west yet, despite being from the eastern part of the New Continent? Luger had thought about this particular issue extensively during the offline period. And he reached a conclusion.

“The defense forces near the forest of the Corrupted World Tree.”

Above all, he saw Ghibrid trying to spare at least one kind of Chimera.

In other words, he was trying to minimize battles and head towards the western part of the New Continent. Therefore, he had to send out scouts. To find the weakest point, he would use his most agile forces. Naturally, the monster with wings, the Manticore, had to be it.

“What will Ghibrid do when he finds out someone capable of killing the Manticore has appeared?”

Despite only a brief battle and short conversation, Luger and Ghibrid’s encounter was more than enough. As a natural hunter, Luger could easily read the idea of ‘prey’ just from that.

Luger focused his gaze and looked in the direction where the Manticore had disappeared. Even though it was a sunny afternoon, in the distance, something twinkling caught his eye. Luger immediately moved his body.

“Whoops-!”

An explosion erupted from where Luger had been just a moment ago. Despite the chaos of flames and deafening noise, Luger swiftly rolled his body and stood up.

“I have no choice but to let that guy go! Hahaha! I’m a genius after all! Nice to meet you, 『Lugermon』!”

Though he was laughing, there was a grotesque twist in Luger’s expression.

“Dang it, can’t really see it properly. The distance exceeds 2.56 meters. How can I make such precise shots from this distance? Moreover, this destructiveness… haha) This monster is a being made for itself.”Therefore, the stronger Lugermon is, the more it proves Luger’s own strength. However, at the moment when he has to fight the monster on a one-on-one basis, feeling something that surpasses his own strength?

Luger immediately set up the timer and pulled the trigger. A few seconds later, there was a loud noise and flames, but that was all. There was a difference in both the time and the volume of sound compared to the explosion that occurred where he was and the light that flashed from Lugermon.


“Damn it, not hitting it? It’s already a distance away, and in the meantime”, Luger focused on a distant black dot. The barely visible Lugermon was gradually rising towards the sky.

“Increasing altitude!? It’s fast too! How the hell am I supposed to deal with this -”

Luger swallowed nervously. Kidd mentioned he fought against Crimson Geckos. the image that came to mind was an attack helicopter. Luger had challenged Lugermon with the perception of an overwhelmingly powerful flying object at a relatively close distance to the ground.

However, at this distance, at that altitude? Lugermon was no longer an attack helicopter.

“Fight against a fighter jet -”

Lugermon suddenly increased altitude, and a flash of light came from it. The flames from the barrel were even visible enough for Luger, 2.56 meters away.

“- What?”

As Luger dodged out of the way, an explosion occurred as soon as he moved his body. A monster that surpassed even Luger in distance, not to mention accuracy!

Luger once again reached for the Cobalt Blue Python at his waist.

‘It’s a distance that can’t even be hit with Artillery Enhancement: anti-aircraft rifle. The angle is too high. Damn it, a dragon might be easier!’

If he lured it close and shot, there was a possibility. However, if that thing realized that it had seized an advantageous position… No, with enough intelligence to realize, it would never come close. Above all, there wasn’t even a lure to drag it in.

Luger could see that. The moment he withdrew his body as bait, the monster would retreat.

“Such opportunities don’t come often. At most three times. Maybe twice. In the worst case, I must also consider the possibility of Ghibrid jumping out at the second time.’ In reality, an ordinary soldier on the ground cannot win against a fighter jet. But this is Middle Earth, so it can be done.

Luger’s thinking quickly shifted. Even faster were Luger’s hands.

What a powerful armored piercing round it was. So powerful that it was almost impossible to withstand the recoil. Literally a sabot round, designed to bring down a Manticores with precision aiming. The round hit right on the Lugermon’s wing.

“Good! Direct hit- Huh!?”

But that was all. The momentarily wobbling Lugermon quickly regained its composure and started gaining altitude once again.

… Did the armor-piercing round not penetrate? What kind of round was that?

As a shooter himself, Luger knew. The previous hit was truly a stroke of luck. Considering the wind direction and speed, hitting a target with that speed at this distance with an armor-piercing round would be close to impossible without some extraordinary luck. Perhaps it was a once-in-a-lifetime shot that might not be repeated!

“But the 90mm recoilless rifle I have can’t be used at this distance! Damn it!”


His own attacks relied on luck, but the enemy’s attacks kept pouring in at this very moment. Luger bit his lip and leaped away.

“My anti-aircraft rifle has already reached its limit…”

Avoiding the explosion had soon reached its limit as well. Once the surrounding terrain was completely devastated, there would be no place to hide.

“Something beyond this is needed. Like…”

Facing a monster with overwhelming firepower at a distance unreachable even for field artillery or 90mm recoilless rifles, Luger muttered.

“Heavy artillery anti-aircraft rifle… Flak. 『Flegerabwehrkanone』

As soon as a single word left his mouth, Luger’s vision flashed.

SHwaaaah…!

A holographic window appeared.

※ ※ 『Acht-Acht-1』 Description:…

“A perfect cannon can hit any target from any angle. The one and only cannon capable of anti-air, anti-ground, and field artillery. But remember, you are the only one to plan, build, and handle it. Content: Legendary-class gunsmith search Reward: Acht-Acht-2 Condition for Failure: Merge Manticore (Subject: Death of Luger) Penalty for Failure: Cancel Quest Route Original Return 『Dominator of all battlefields, cannoneer』 -Do you accept?

“Acht-Acht-1?”

For Luger, Middle Earth translations were not needed with the original language. However, he couldn’t grasp the exact meaning. Compared to the typical quest window which distinguishes between the ‘dialogue’ of the quest giver and the ‘description’ of the Middle Earth system, the description given in the quest window was too lacking for Luger.

“Is this quest because of that guy? Did he give me the quest?”

Luger gazed at Lugermon once again. But it was unsettling to think that a monster had assigned a quest.

“Is the lack of explanation because of him?”

The content read “Gunsmith search”, with the failure condition being his death. What could this possibly mean?

Yaaargh… Arcane Sniper

Another explosion shook Luger’s mind.

Even analyzing the quest window with a relaxed mind, it was difficult to understand, being forced to make such a choice in the unending battlefield of explosions!


“Damn it all!”

Luger once again pulled the trigger towards 『Lugermon』.

With a loud bang and a recoil strong enough to make his right side stagger, another steel bullet shot out. However, lugermon skillfully dodged it.

‘If it’s not a time-limited explosive round… it’s impossible to catch that. Dammit! Is making that the quest? But he’s a legendary blacksmith – that idiot orangutan bastard was only at hero level-‘

Briefly thinking of Koba, the leader of the bonobo paleo, Luger’s lips tightened as his eyes momentarily glazed over.

Clearly, Koba had been the best blacksmith he knew up until now.

For Luger, he was the only one who had strengthened his weapons, his one and only support. But what about now?

“The bearded dwarves said it themselves. The skill of that inspirational fool who failed to synthesize legendary firearms has changed.”

There was Bottleneck.

Failing to synthesize legendary firearms, but due to that failure, Bottleneck’s grade had risen. Luger couldn’t know what would happen next, but at least Bottleneck was noticeably different, enough to require resting.

“Hahaha… Am I truly favored by God!? Hihi, that stupid bastard was working for me after all! Legendary blacksmith and all-purpose cannon, ahh- ahh!”

Luger remembered.

The last words he muttered! 『Flegerabwehrkanone』. In other words, it was Flak. Ahh- ahh, if we combine them, the answer is 8.86cm Flak!”

Luger immediately turned around and ran.

He had to cleanly admit that he couldn’t deal with Lugermon right now.

“If I die to that guy, it’s all for naught. Haha, but with this quest and the failure penalty written on 『Cannoneer』 ..

A German won’t fail to understand its meaning.

An explosion occurred behind Luger. Feeling the warm flames against his back and the storm pushing his body, Luger laughed.

“Cannoneer! A ‘gunner’!”

The strongest enemy in the world, who is it? It’s none other than oneself.

Luger fully understood that point. And he had the opportunity to fight with ‘himself’. It was certainly not something common. In some respects, it was both luck and misfortune that no one else could achieve. It was almost natural for Luger to acquire the quest in a different way from Kidd. ***

Despite the feast of food prepared to the point of breaking the table’s leg, the only moving chopsticks were those of Ram Hwajung.

In the restaurant where only the clinking noises of utensils spread softly, Leeha’s mother, barely opened her mouth.

“It’s still too early to decide what to order… I’m sorry, there’s only this kind of food available-”

“Oh no, no! Mother, it’s really delicious!”

“But, you should eat it with rice-”

Ram Hwayeon wrapped the cod roe in kimchi and ate it. Leeha had no choice but to hold back a sigh. *Sucking sound*

“It might be too salty…”

Kijung lowered his head to suppress a laugh, while Leeha looked at him with a dissatisfied expression. The crisp sound of the kimchi echoed awkwardly. It was still around two in the afternoon, and despite briefly introducing the Ram sisters, the awkwardness remained. Or rather, the situation became even more awkward.

“So, then… uh, in Hong Kong… you work…?”

“Yes, yes. Just a small business.”

“Uh. Unni.”

“Hush, Hwajung.”

“*Choke…!*”

Kijung once again ducked his head under the table. The conversation between Ram Hwayeon’s somewhat broken smile and incomprehensible Ram Hwajung alone was like a comedy sketch. From Leeha’s perspective, Kijung was so comical that he wanted to scold him. Secretly, Leeha elbowed Kijung’s thigh under the table and quickly sent a text message.

“You just wait and see.”

“Khu, sorry, hyung. But still! Introducing them to aunt now will lessen the shock later.”

“Why do you keep saying it will be less shocking later? What do you think will happen? Besides, even if you explain about the Ram Long Group, my mom still has no idea about that! She knows your personality!”

Kijung introduced that they were the eldest and youngest daughters of the chairman and were managing the group’s business. However, what Leeha’s mother currently understood was only that their father was helping run a small company abroad. The sense of alienation and an indescribable distance. Add Ram Hwayeon’s unusual attitude, there was simply no escape from the thorny situation. (To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

The Three Musketeers randomly getting their Second Job quests.

Leeha – Sniper

Luger – Cannoneer

Kidd – Gunslinger(?)
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“Well, then, feel free to talk. If you need anything else, please let me know.”

“Yes, thank you, mother!”

Ram Hwayeon suddenly stood up from her seat and greeted, and Leeha’s mother, who was getting up from her chair, awkwardly exchanged greetings with Ram Hwayeon. It was only natural for Kijung to nod in response.

As Leeha’s mother left the room, the atmosphere began to lighten up at last. Even though it was still uncomfortable to leave the room and hear their conversation from the small resting area behind the kitchen, the fact that Ram Hwayeon’s expression was starting to relax was a relief for Leeha’s mother.

“Uh… What’s on your mind?”

“Huh? Oh?!”

However, her relaxed expression quickly hardened.

Leeha felt as if he was learning for the first time what it meant to ‘shout quietly’ while listening to her voice.

“What now? Offering greetings to the family…to Mom… If you were going to do that, you should’ve said so earlier! Ugh, anyway!”

“Unni, you’re blushing.”

“Hwajung, go eat your meal. Finish it.”

“Okay.”

While Ram Hwayeon was all bold, Ram Hwajung wanted to tease her sister, but it was simply impossible from the start.

“So many things to bring! Just say a word, don’t be indifferent!”

It was only natural for Ram Hwayeon to react this way. Even if there were signs that she would meet Leeha’s mother, she would never have appeared as she did now.

Seeing Ram Hwayeon’s fluctuating mood, Leeha needed to find a way to lighten the mood.

Fortunately, all four of them sitting face to face shared one thing in common.

“Oh, by the way, Ram Hwajung, did you do the second job change quest?”

“Yeah, the Ice one.”


The story of Middle Earth was always a surefire way to connect.

“Oh? Second job change? Awesome! Congratulations!”

As Ram Hwajung accepted the congratulations, Leeha, with a surprised look on his face, congratulated her. Was it because the story of Middle Earth quickly turned into a business story?

By now, ran Hwayeon’s expression was back to normal as if nothing happened.

“Becoming a star’s family, it doesn’t really matter to you, but it would be nice if you were careful with your words.”

“Oh, well, but anyway, Kijung is-”

“Yeah, I know. I’m not accusing you of anything. And also, our Hwajung’s second job advancement was all thanks to you as well.”

As Leeha huffed out an explanation, ran Hwayeon smiled warmly.

Kijung also couldn’t help but look at it and asked Leeha, “What did Eungah do?”

“It’s nothing special. And rather than what I did, it’s more about Ram Hwajung doing well. The second job advancement, it’s nothing anyone can do.”

Although Leeha modestly spoke, ran Hwayeon nodded with a determined expression.

“Half right, half wrong.”

“What?”

Leeha inquired, surprised.

“Since Hwajung received the quest, I did some research. It’s true that not just anyone can undertake the second job advancement as you said. You need to have a certain level of skill. However… that alone is not enough.”

“Then?”

Leeha asked with a surprised expression, prompting Ram Hwayeon to pause for a moment before pulling something out of her bag. It was merely two sheets of paper, but the information contained within was as precious as gold to the players in Middle Earth.

“Look, look. I analyzed Alexander, master Kay, and Hwajung.”

“This is…”, Leeha started speaking, but quickly took the papers to read them. Kijung also glanced at the documents without even knowing English. It was confirmed that their second job advancement was complete, and it was perfectly documented how terrifying the two players were. Additionally, there was the player who was closest to them in the process of advancing to the second stage.

Although they were only analyzing three players, by tracking their gameplay, ran Hwayeon and the Hwahong guild had extracted some commonalities.


“When did you conduct this research? It seems like you know more about me than I do”, Leeha asked.

“Besides skill, one more thing is needed…”

While Kijung marveled, Leeha was already reading the end of the documents. Ram Hwayeon received Leeha’s question.

『Characteristic Keywords』. After turning one’s characteristics into keywords, one must possess that keyword and have a higher-level target than oneself.”

For Alexander, it was Bailephus. What about Kijung? Fighting with Ghibrid wasn’t the main keyword. The reason for fighting with Ghibrid!

“The Pope… I see. Since your original job was a Templar, a holy knight, that’s why?”

When confronting the Demon King’s Army with the transcendent power horn in Middle Earth, it’s only natural that the Pope, with the remarkably high level, stands above everyone else, considering the data of Alexander, Kijung, and Ram Hwajung.

“In that case, Chiyou would be night.”

The keyword is the profession of Night…?

“Meeting someone who is a vampire might indeed be a natural occurrence.”

“We can’t exactly pinpoint that. I’m not sure if the second job advancement has been confirmed.”

“It’s likely confirmed. However, it makes sense that we can’t pinpoint it. If Bluebeard has done something unusual, it may differ from the typical advancement.”

Igor and Faust are there. While the Berserker and the Necromancer go well with magic, there seems to be a slight lack of connection between them being turned into vampires and having a second job advancement.

“That’s it.”

In other words, what bridged that gap was the power of Bluebeard. The speculations of Leeha and Ram Hwayeon were heading in the same direction.

“Alright. So, since Ram Hwajung’s profession is ‘Ice Mage’, the keyword would be ice, and the high-ranking target would be-”

“It was the Silver Dragon you introduced her to. Huh? Why are you smiling?”

“Me? Was I smiling?”

“You’re smiling right now.”

Instead of answering Leeha’s words, ran Hwayeon pointed at his face. Leeha tried to lower the corners of his mouth that had unknowingly turned up, but it wasn’t easy.


‘Skill? It can’t be just about becoming a Ranker. Kijung’s second job advancement implies that. It might involve reaching the top in each profession or being a descendant of a hero, or perhaps there are other requirements. It may even be evaluated based on a stat total. From the perspective of “skill” alone, I… must have passed. The fact that a quest has already appeared is proof of that.

‘If I were to pinpoint my unique keyword, it would be 『snipe』. No matter what anyone says, I am the sole successor of “Accuracy” in Middle Earth. So, ultimately, if it aligns with my specialty, accuracy and sniping, the one who will lead me…’ Leeha finally understood everything and could make a clear decision. The White Reaper. This quest would undoubtedly lead him to a second job advancement.

“Hey, can you stop smiling like that? It’s annoying. And how long are we going to stay here?”

“Ah, right. Since it’s the end of the year, let’s go out and have some fun! I’ll show you around Seoul! Mom! I’m going out! We’ll leave the stuff here and go!”

“Y-yeah! Buy something delicious for the ladies! Huh?! Leeha! Do well!”

“Do well in what!? Let’s go, hurry up!”

Standing up abruptly from his seat, Leeha grabbed Kijung, who had just started eating. When the Ram sisters came to Korea for business relationships, they experienced many aspects of Korean culture as if they were completing a homework assignment they had never encountered before. The most enjoyable part of their unfamiliar cultural experiences was the guidance provided by someone named Leeha.

The only problem was that they couldn’t find accommodation, so they ended up returning late at night to Leeha’s mother’s store.

“Are you telling us to stay here and sleep?”

“Not exactly… Let’s go home and-”

“What are you talking about!”

“I mean! Let’s stay here! The convenience store is open today too! We can talk and have fun all night, then watch the sunrise in the morning, right? Isn’t that great? Kijung, you like it, right?”

“Uh… Should I stay here too, hyung?”

“Don’t state the obvious!”

Leeha forcibly made Kijung sit on the floor, then quickly went to the convenience store and bought snacks, beer, and milk for Ram Hwajung to drink. They talked late into the night; alcohol helped dissipate the awkwardness and was a great ingredient in making people more active.

“Unni, listen.”

“Oh! The midnight bell! What, it’s already midnight?”

As Ram Hwajung whispered, Kijung fiddled with the switch inside the restaurant.

As December 31st 11:59 PM passed and January 1st 00:00 AM arrived, Leeha and Ram Hwayeon locked eyes. It was a long, intense moment, as if waiting for the sun to rise.

“Ah… Thank you for everything, eung-ah. I’m leaving.”

“Sure. I wish you could just stay, eung-”

Kijung chuckled and dodged Leeha’s punch.

“Why are you acting like that! You were fine because of me too!”

“Do you think this is a good thing? Ugh, this guy.”

The initial sense of confusion was all but gone as they watched the sunrise together after midnight, and as they sent each other off at the airport for the new year, the dynamics between Leeha and Ram Hwayeon had changed significantly.

“Ugh, I hate to admit it, but it’s probably thanks to Kijung. It was almost like being forced to spend nearly 24 hours together in the same place, so if our relationship didn’t change, that would have been even weirder.”

“When you come back later, you owe me a meal, hyung! Hehe, well, I’m off! Take care!”

Leeha, who was the last to part way with Kijung dragged his tired body back home. Although they wanted to take a breather as Kijung wished, now was not the time. There were moments missed and, above all, now that they understood the structure of the 2nd job change, they couldn’t afford to sit back and relax.

“Mom! I’m home! You don’t have to prepare lunch – uh!”

Leeha’s wrist that was about to rush to the Middle Earth access device was grabbed immediately.

“Come on! Tell me! How did it go? Did the girls leave well? That slightly bluish hair, that friend seems too young, right? No, it’s the brunette, right? Tall? How did you find them? From where? What Kijung said about some group, I looked it up, but it doesn’t make any sense! Are those people the ones?”

“Wait! Mom! One by one! What are you saying?”

Faster than a Middle Earth addict, the strength of a mother! Leeha was instantly bombarded with questions as he sat in front of his inquisitive mother.

Seeing the news article page about the Ram Long Group on his mother’s gloomy smartphone, Leeha finally understood why she was making a fuss.

“Geez! Well, she’s the daughter of such a huge conglomerate, so it’s bound to be a bit strange, right?”

Where should Leeha start explaining? No, was there a need to explain at all? The truth was, there was nothing certain, not even as much as being acquaintances, let alone a girlfriend.

“They are those people, and the brunette is correct. But what you have in mind… I’m still not sure about that. Anyway, if something happens, I’ll let you know later.”

As they calmly replied while looking into their mother’s eyes, her fuss quickly settled down.

“You know~, you gotta be confident. A man should have guts. The other party is from Hong Kong, huh? So what if it’s some group! Don’t be intimidated. Got it?”

“Mom, really, I’m not intimidated at all. Don’t worry.”

Understanding her mother’s concern, Leeha reassured her.

In fact, there was a subtle sense of aversion. Wouldn’t a 2nd job at Ram Long be predetermined by now? Above all, wouldn’t they oppose getting involved with a normal family like Leeha’s over there, which caused the sense of aversion?

Maybe that was a big part of why Leeha treated Ram Hwayeon so coldly. As Leeha tried to get up from his seat, his mother added, “Yeah. Our son would never do that. Oh, but I’m definitely in favor!”

“Huh? What are you talking about?”

“That girl seems reliable. I can’t figure out these gossip articles at all. Where would you find friends these days who greet you so courteously? Especially foreigners who wouldn’t bow easily. Mom is always in favor, the faster, the better! Got it?”

“W-what are you… saying, mom!”

In a rush, they got up and hurried into their room. The laughter echoing from their mother’s back made them shudder.

“Kijung is definitely my mother’s sister’s son. The bloodline spreads after all…”

Shaking at the thought of his mother’s laughter bringing back memories of Kijung and the overly excited mannerisms of his mother, Leeha finally immersed himself in the Middle Earth access device.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Although it felt random, the way Leeha, Luger, and Kidd got their 2nd Job advancement quest was tied to the story well. Leeha needed an item to fight of against cold before fighting Chiyou in the eternal mountains, and through stroke of luck, he got the White Plague Potion.

Luger had to die from Ghibrid and fight agains Lugermon to get his quest.

And Kidd, although he was the most random person to encounter his quest, it didn’t feel forced. He got asked by Lark and Shin Nara for help to monitor a village against Faust and Igor’s attack and he happened to be sent to a town that have gunslingers. Wow, that was long.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 766

				
Arcane Sniper 766

“Um, this is it. This one.”

Leeha stretched with a sense far more developed than in the real world and immediately opened the chat window to send a whisper to his friends.

Leeha: Nara-ssi! Happy New Year! Wishing you a lot of blessings for the new year!

Nara: Leeha! You logged in fast, huh? I thought it would take a few more days.

Leeha: There’s nothing else to do anyway. If I don’t poke, then Nara will probably leave again. How’s everything? Nothing special?

After exchanging simple New Year’s greetings, Leeha brought up the main topic indirectly, asking for updates on Igor and Faust, who seemed to have been restless lately.

“Oh, did I bring up the main point too soon?”

After sending the message, Leeha realized they had been too nonchalant, but Nara’s response was casual.

Nara: Not at all. We sent Lark and some others to different villages, and they seem to have decided not to move for a while, these guys.

Leeha: Oh… really?

“Hmm, something feels… organized.”

It was a situation where Leeha either wanted to point out their nonchalance or discuss things related to Middle Earth with Nara, showing how much he had to hold back.

Wasn’t it proof enough that there were many situations that Leeha would remember in this way?

Nevertheless, Nara’s voice felt somewhat cheerful.

Nara: Yes! For the Sacred Knights’ dispatched troops, they were instructed to contact you immediately if anything happens. Since Lark will also be informed simultaneously, don’t feel too burdened… I’ll leave it to you.

Leeha: Of course. Please leave it to me and enjoy your break.

Nara: If you have any questions, you can ask Lark-ssi. See you later then!

Nara logged out, and Leeha lowered their head in thought.”Lark… ssi? Were these two always this friendly?”

Leeha continued to roam around for his tasks, logged out, and during the time spent with Ram Hwayeon in the Middle Earth, nearly four days had passed. Even spending just 24 hours together can bring people closer, but these two had been together for four days. Leeha, who was unaware of this fact even in his dreams, felt a strange awkwardness and headed towards the Bottleneck’s Smithy. Clang! Clang!


The sound of hammering rang out without a break, bringing Leeha back to reality.

“The first thing to do is to find the items. A sniper battle against the White Reaper will certainly not be easy.”

What to do. How to do it. He still hadn’t fully understood Sergeant Kim’s advice, but he couldn’t just sit back and wait either.

“Bottleneck, are you there?!”

Without Blaugrunn, without any help to defend against the White Reaper to engage in a sniper battle, there were definitely items that were necessary.

“Huff… What’s wrong, no response. Are you busy?”

Leeha entered the busy blacksmith shop, only to find Bottleneck.

Unlike usual, the burly back of the dwarf, unshaken by flattery, caught his eye.

“Did the lord come?”

“Uh… Yes, I’ve come.”

Just as Leeha was about to relay his business to Bottleneck and quickly leave, he was momentarily overwhelmed by the changed atmosphere. There was no visible difference in appearance. The rough beard stained with soot remained the same. However, the dwarf holding the hammer was undeniably a different being from the Bottleneck Leeha had known until now. Indeed, it seemed that this was the effect of the 『Legend』 grade itself, giving an aura of dignity to Bottleneck.

“The first request was not a problem. However, the second one. Although you had asked me to make a chestpiece out of Toon’s ribs, it seemed a bit wasteful to do so. One cannot simply make protective equipment for the lord’s life so casually. Therefore, I decided to make it in the form of a shirt that could wrap all the way up to the arms.”

“Bottleneck-ssi! I asked you to use the ‘Fragment of Toon’s Chestplate’ to create a form for the Bulletproof and Stab-Proof Vests! It shouldn’t cover up to the arms, that’s just… armor!”

“Just try it on. I’ll bring it, so wait here.”

Even though Leeha was making a fuss, Bottleneck spoke in a soft tone. But Leeha had a lot to say as well. Bulletproof and stab-proof vests are inherently rigid and heavy.

Of course, it might not matter much to melee job classes, but for long-range job classes like Leeha, isn’t the weight and mobility flexibility essential?

‘But if I wear it as a whole top… How am I supposed to carry my rifle!’

Not to mention, this time the material is not the Kevlar or polyethylene fiber commonly used in modern bulletproof vests.

A massive protrusion from the chest area of Toon!

Turning that into clothing? How are we supposed to aim the barrel with such a heavy and stiff piece of clothing that makes it hard to even lift our arms! Leeha hesitated as he watched Bottleneck coming over with something.


“You’re acting all polite saying you’re following in the footsteps of your ancestors, but if you don’t make it as requested, it’s just a waste of materials… Is this it?”

Bottleneck immediately stopped Leeha’s complaining as soon as he saw the item.

Leeha and Bottleneck alternated looking at the item excitedly in Leeha’s hand.

“What you explained to me just now is different from this, right? Wait, this is made of Toon’s bones, isn’t it? It’s just clothing?”

What Leeha held in his hand was a fragile-looking garment.

Perplexed, Leeha lightly touched its surface.

“It’s not that heavy. But it definitely doesn’t feel like regular clothes. But it’s made of bones? That doesn’t make sense! In terms of roughness, it feels even softer than linen!”

What exactly is this?

As Leeha chuckled in confusion, Bottleneck laughed heartily.

“We extracted only the carbon from Toon’s Chestplate. That darn dinosaur creatures, it’s so massive, but not much useful stuff came out of it. Anyway, I tried a new bonding method using the extracted carbon. I made it in a hexagonal shape, so that it can be continuously attached like a series of thin tubes.”

Bottleneck chuckled and looked at Leeha. When Leeha showed no reaction, Bottleneck’s voice grew louder.

“I’ve been sweating like a dog over the fiber part for days! You have no idea how hard it was! Actually, I almost finished making it as you requested but completely trashed it and started fresh! Haha! It’s okay, you don’t have to thank me; all of this was made possible because of you, lord!”

“No, that’s not important! Carbon – Carbon? Carbon composite fibers – and that too in a nanotube form?! Insane!”

“What the heck are you saying!? Who do you think is crazy here? And if that’s not important, what is important then?”

“Oh, no. That’s not what I meant Bottleneck-ssi… Ha, ha, oh my.”

Leeha couldn’t help but shiver at the sound of gunfire. Memories from his military days suddenly flashed back. There was a new material being developed to be used in the latest bulletproof vests. The material, called carbon nanotubes, was a composite of carbon layers as thin as nano-level yet strong enough to withstand regular rifle bullets. It was said that even the theory of creating such material was not fully developed. Ah, right. This is not the real world. It’s Middle Earth.

The difference between hero-grade and legendary-grade items was not just two words; it pierced through him like bones.

“Performance! How is the performance?”

“Haha! Shouldn’t you see for yourself, Leeha-nim? Why ask me?”

“Right, right.”


Leeha lifted the item to inspect its detailed description. Kidd: Are you just idling around in the blacksmith shop? One minute should be enough to grab your bullets.

Luger: Haha… Leeha, are you listening? It’s too late, foolish man. No, I should say, dear man.

At that moment, two voices resonated in his head simultaneously.

“Kidd? Luger? What, are you both here together? What’s with the whispers?”

He was taken aback. People he seldom contacted were now inexplicably and simultaneously talking to him?

Kidd: Did Luger tell you the whisper? Luger: What did that Kidd say?

The response that came after a while was even more bizarre. Leeha opened the teleport window of the Three Musketeers to confirm their locations.

“What? They’re not even together. Are they making some kind of secret agreement and going crazy?”

He chuckled as he checked Kidd’s location – Deadwood and Luger’s location – Corrupted Forest of the World Tree. Did Kidd and Luger also check each other’s locations while he was verifying theirs?

Without a word for a moment, they soon started exchanging whispers with laughter.

Kidd: I’ll go first.

Luger: Follow me for life, third Musketeer. Haha!

He sighed listening to their incomprehensible whispers.

“Ugh, these game addicts… Anyway, they lack social skills. If you want to have a conversation, make sure the other person understands. Or at least say ‘Happy New Year’ for goodness’ sake. Why do they just talk about themselves and abruptly cut off?”

Why did Kidd and Luger tell each other why they haven’t talked to each other to Leeha?

Considering their usual personalities, it was clearly not a normal occurrence.

Leeha questioned their behavior but decided to first check the items in their possession.

In reality, it was something that could be understood with just a little thought.

Most importantly, Kidd and Luger had gone overboard with unnecessary boasting due to their inflated egos.

However, what made it difficult to focus on their conversation was the presence of the seemingly weightless 『Future-Proof Body Armor』.

『Legendary Blacksmith-Made Piercing Nullification Body Armor』

Defense: (User’s HP)

Effect: Stamina +25, damage reduction by 30% when hit, resistance to fear status +100%

Description: A top made by the legendary Dwarf blacksmith Bottleneck from the mythical armor of Toon.

“I tried to make the armor both piercing-proof and flexible in movement, but perhaps I lacked materials. No, maybe it was my skills that were lacking. Anyway, I am sorry. I wanted to perfectly reproduce the nullification of damage upon impact, but I had to give up a bit on that part. But this much is enough for you, right?”

This very light top possesses a significant level of damage nullification and flawless piercing nullification effects. People unable to buy it would call it a miracle created by the ‘Meeting of Two Legends.’

Additional Effect: If the hit received by the body armor is less than its defense effect, nullifies all piercing effects involved in the attack…

“Wait. Bottleneck-ssi? Is this–”

“I’m not entirely satisfied. I still haven’t fully mastered my power.”

Bottleneck said as he clenched and unclenched his fists.

Despite his seemingly regretful words, his expression did not betray any unease. Leeha could tell that Bottleneck himself was actually quite satisfied with the performance of this item.

“Usually, it’s about the materials used. Even the Dagger made from Toon’s claw was a dagger made from the legendary dinosaur claw. But this one ‘Legend’ is a term used for craftsmen.

It’s a way of showing respect towards the person who made it possible to create such a soft garment from a piece of armor with a completely alive bone texture!

“Bottleneck-ssi!”

“Ah! Why are you like this?”

Leeha embraced Bottleneck tightly. His rough beard tickled Leeha’s chest, but to the excited Leeha, it didn’t even register.

“Anyway! I knew it! I believed that you would make it someday!”

“Hahaha, that’s nice to hear, but thanks to you, lord, I should be the one grateful! I owe you!”

“That’s- Well, upon second thought, it’s a bit irritating! Anyway, I’ll forgive you, haha! This is amazing!”

(To be continued.)
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Even without trying it on, Leeha could tell. Even without bothering to prove its effects, he could tell. The various effects were so good that resistance to ‘fear’ at a 100% level was almost non-existent.

What did it mean that defense is not based on the user’s ‘stamina’ but rather on the user’s HP? And on top of that, damage taken from hits was reduced by 30%?

“But the most amazing thing, really, truly amazing thing-! is that if the damage is lower than what is mitigated by all those effects of the 『Defense』, then the piercing effect itself is nullified! This is something that every user of Middle Earth would naturally know. The piercing effect is the most basic form of attack. It’s not just about the penetration of bullets. Stabbing with a spear, hitting with arrows, or even slashing with a sword is a form of ‘pierce’. In a sense, any kind of attack that depletes HP is considered a wide definition of pierce. Therefore, most 『skill attacks』 inherently possess a certain level of piercing effect.”

“Character Window!”

Name: Leeha / Race: Human / Occupation: Musketeer / Level: 252 (38%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 152 HP: 9,620 (6,734) / MP: 3,690

Stats: Strength 720 (+635)

Agility 4000 (+1,382)

Intelligence 550 (+334)

Stamina 360 (+253)

Mind 248 (+150)

Remaining Stat Points: 200

“Now that I think about it, I don’t regret using that White Reaper’s rifle at all. The achievement I acquired back then, the whatever of God, greatly boosted my health.”

Thanks to the 142 stamina points, Leeha’s health reached a whopping 9,620, increasing Leeha’s overall defense to 9,620 with just one item!

‘Insane, Kijung’s Shield- Oh, that guy also got Toon’s Shield now. I wonder what the defense of the shield he used before Toon’s Shield was?’

He couldn’t help but laugh. The defense of a shield that is so large and cumbersome, restricting one hand, might currently be similar to or even possibly lower than Leeha’s armor’s defense.

“Last time, because of Faust, I invested 48 points in mind… First, let’s cleanly adjust the stamina…” Investing points in stamina, also increased HP, and raising it to 480. After investing enough points, it became a perfect number.

“10,000—”

“Hmm?”


“Oh, no. Nothing. *inhales*”

Leeha chuckled while covering his mouth. Defense of 10,000. In addition, damage taken reduced by 30% when hit. Damage taken below the defense effect of Body Armor is nullified by the piercing effect.

“Well, that means even if you use a skill attack with an attack power of 14,000 on me, the actual damage that comes in is only 9,800, and since it’s lower than the defense, the piercing effect attached to that skill is completely nullified. Without the piercing effect, the actual damage will be much lower than 9,800- What is this?!”

And considering Jellypong as well? I am completely invincible, aren’t I?

Leeha didn’t utter the final words aloud. His fear of risking a disturbance(?) if he were to say such a thing was because the effectiveness was so outstanding.

“Good. This should be enough…”

Leeha tucked the magazine into the small bag at his waist. There was no time to waste. As he was about to pull out his revolver, Bottleneck spoke up.

“Luger has been causing trouble again, but I guess he can handle it himself, right?”

“Luger? Who’s Luger?”

It was only then that Leeha remembered Luger’s mentioning.

“Oh, right. He was talking about something here… What did he say before leaving?”

“He placed a bizarre order. Even left 『Cobalt Blue Python』 here.”

“Oh, really?”

Leeha finally noticed the rifle with a bluish hue inside the workshop. A sense of unease washed over him. Luger wouldn’t leave behind a weapon as precious as life itself, let alone place an order with Bottleneck.

“What did he ask for?”

“He wanted me to use mana to graft a new form onto the Cobalt Blue Python. It’s a new challenge for me. This is the 《Shining Hammer》, something only I could handle.”

“But what does grafting mean?”

“No! Reinforcement enhances the performance of the weapon. This is something even the old me could do.”

“I see. Grafting? What is that? And I think I’ve heard of the 《Shining Hammer》 before…”

“You fool! Don’t you even properly remember the description of your weapon?! Do you know who sealed that cursed weapon?”


“Ah… Alas!”

“This shouldn’t exist in this world! I shall seal it with the power of 《Shining Hammer》 for the sake of all living beings.”

Perhaps due to the seal by the legendary dwarf, no one has used the original power of Black Bass since then. Leeha immediately checked the description window of Black Bass. Then he could draw two sketches. Shining Hammer = Legendary Dwarf = One who “sealed” Black Bass’s “skill.”

Bottleneck = Legendary Dwarf = ?

“Skill… Skill sealing – No, then skill bestowal! Me?!”

“You don’t need to do anything, lord. Black Bass is already perfect. And this is also my new fight. Luger, the scoundrel, being a guide to a new path… It’s like creating a guide comparable to Black Bass.”

A new fight, a new path. At that moment, everything became clear. Why did Luger blurt out confidential information with such a triumphant voice? Did Kidd possibly not know Luger’s truth and be caught off guard? Leeha’s hair stood on end.

“These bastards!”

The keyword for the 2nd job advancement. The two would obtain it.

“Open.”

“Yes, sir.”

Whooooshhh…. Leeha who found himself back where the snowstorm was raging commanded the giant in front of him. With a guard level of 80 and a career that had been around the block, he couldn’t refuse Leeha’s words, deflated morale and buffs aside.

“Damn it… They contacted me to boast. People who shouldn’t have said such things.”

When people who usually don’t bat an eyelid contact you, there’s always a reason.

“Come to think of it, isn’t it obvious?”

Leeha thought about the 2nd job advancement while waiting for the massive iron gate to open. He found the answer to the 2nd job advancement quest through the White Reaper. In terms of skills, he was certainly not inferior to Kidd and Luger, maybe even superior. But if they were to fight directly? He was confident he wouldn’t lose, but claiming a definite victory was difficult. Even if he tried long-range sniping, they wouldn’t easily give up the terrain. The ultimate problem lay in the experience within Middle Earth. From this perspective, he could see that he was still slightly behind them. Perhaps the real issue was that they hadn’t discovered any clues about the 2nd job advancement he found.

“But why are humans who never said anything suddenly? Where did they suddenly obtain the special keywords?”

Above all, what was incomprehensible was the simultaneous triggering of the 2nd job advancement quests. Why? Except for Alexander and Kijung, hadn’t no one heard any news about the 2nd job advancement until now?

The reason why hints about the second job advancement are discovered among many people.

“Aside from Alexander and Kijung, the first person to advance the fastest was… Chiyou. At least as far as I know, there’s only Chiyou, right?”


One hypothesis that came to Leeha’s mind was that there were only two second advancements. However, Chiyou completing the second job advancement made her the third person. In that moment, could there have been some kind of change?

“I think there were no second advancers other than Alexander and Kijung… If that’s the case, it makes some sense”, he remembered. The phrase in Phase 3: “The end is not the end. It will surpass the limits of 3.”

The most common interpretation was that the release of the 300 level limit was the main focus. However, is that the end of it? After updating one phase in Middle Earth, if the conditions of that phase were met, they would immediately move on to the next phase.

But how many of the rankers had already surpassed level 300?

“About 4 of them? Pei Woo definitely must have surpassed 300”, he said. Even though more than 3 had exceeded level 300, Phase 3 did not end. Then…

“Could it be that reaching 3 or more second advancements brings about some change? No, but that’s a bit…”

As soon as three users – Alexander, master Kay, and Chiyou – reached the second job advancement, there was suddenly an explosive increase in second job advancement quests. Could that be another change in Phase 3?

The idea that surpassing the limits of 3 meant that suggests a different meaning? The speculation that maybe once 3 surpasses 3, Phase 3 ends.

“The release of the 300 level limit is the first one. The unlocking of the second job advancement is the second one. And there’s a third something…? So, when Phase Three exceeds three, it ends – Oh, my head hurts!”

As the cycles of three, three, and more three repeated, a feeling of blankness washed over his mind. Eventually, he made a decision, “Ah, whatever! I’ll figure it out eventually!”

With a shake of his head, he brushed off the thoughts. Phase 3 wasn’t the key. It wasn’t about how or why Kidd and Luger obtained the keywords for their second job advancement. They got them. He got one too. So, what remained was just one thing, right? Who would do it first? ‘That bastard Luger, insisting on me becoming part of the “Three Musketeers” as the ‘third’ one?’

Leeha loaded a fresh magazine into his Black Bass. Kuooooong…

At that moment, the iron gate in front of him swung open.

“This time, I’m the first.”

Thunk, thunk, thunk – Footsteps resounded as he walked on the unpaved white ground. Near the ruins where the White Reaper’s Ghost resided, the sound of pulling a bowstring quietly echoed.

Clang.

※ ※

“Nothing seems to have changed.”

The entrance of the village that had been devastated by Blaugrunn’s magic remained the same. Except for the fact that the shattered wooden debris seemed a little cleaner than before, there wasn’t much of a difference. The road leading to the village remained singular, with rugged hills on both sides, and sporadic ruins beyond the village entrance.

“There are plenty of hiding places. Most importantly, it’s the White Reaper. If he had hidden in the forest behind the village instead of the village, there’s no way to find him.”

However, the White Reaper wouldn’t have gone that far. At least, Leeha believed that the White Reaper wouldn’t retreat before the ‘intruders’ entered.

“Considering the line of sight… there shouldn’t be a problem. The effective range of the Mosin-Nagant rifle is certainly long, but it didn’t shoot last time even from the entrance of the village ruins where it could clearly see here! Even without any constraints in view, it didn’t shoot?”

As the hill grew steeper and the path narrowed, the White Reaper began its attack. Leeha thought it could be due to the concentration of enemy movements, but perhaps it was also because of the issue of the effective range.

“Yeah, without that level of penalty, how can I win? Even if it’s at this level of the map, it’s incredibly vast.”

The village was structured within a basin, surrounded by terrain closer to hills than mountains, and the entrance he had entered was the only one at present.

“Though it was said that there used to be an exit further north, ever since the emergence of the White Reaper’s Ghost, no one has entered or exited through it. In other words, beyond this point is virtually uncharted territory.”

Therefore, the White Reaper’s Ghost wouldn’t move beyond the northern exit. In essence, the battlefield had a relatively clear boundary. From the inside of the village where lives were lost to the hill-shaped basin that had once been utilized as pastures, fields, and orchards. While it was once the village, it was by no means narrow, yet it was not so wide as to be unimaginably vast.

(To be continued…)
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“Hoo hoo hoo… Okay, eye for an eye, tooth for a tooth.”

Leeha removed the scope from Black Bass. Then, he took out another item he had received from Bottleneck along with the Body Armor.

“Just like I can’t see you, you won’t be able to see me.”

It looked similar to a silencer, but its purpose was different.

It was a flash silencer that suppressed muzzle flashes.

Click, click, click…

Leeha attached the flash silencer and once again visualized the map in his mind. What was the battlefield’s layout? The contours and positions of all the structures in the terrain?

How many sniping spots were there for both the enemy and himself, and which location would be the most rational to aim from?

“Now… it’s time to assess it properly.”

The whole map was firmly etched in Leeha’s mind. And now, there was only one task left. Observing to find the enemy. Leeha gazed towards the left hill.

“I can’t climb to the top of the hill. The moment I reveal myself there, my head might get blown off. So, the most crucial point in sniping to find the enemy is not to reveal your own position.”

Fortunately, Leeha possessed such a skill.

『Camouflage』.”

Near the middle of the hill, Leeha took a prone position. Camouflage automatically disengaged with rapid movements. However, there were ranges where it didn’t disengage.

It was about 100 meters from Leeha’s position to the hilltop where the White Reaper was.

“The fight starts now.”

By moving fast, it would take only a few seconds to reach there, but from now on, it was a battle of patience. How much effort should he invest to reach there?

Leeha knew that the first requirement for a sniper was patience.

Whoooooooosh…


The wind blew.

Leeha adjusted the direction and speed of the wind with the hat he put on firmly, pressing it down. About one hour and thirty minutes later, a giant known as Karelin Thunderfoot arrived at the location where the White Reaper’s Ghost was isolated.

“Pant, pant… Did that person enter again? Did they come out? Was there a battle?”

Karelin was even more imposing due to the bulky robe he wore.

Although his voice sounded clear as if it revealed his personality, the guards standing nearby took on a tense posture.

“No presence of mana for spatial teleportation yet, and there was no noise.” one guard reported.

“Good! So, can I go in as well?” asked Karelin eagerly.

“Of course!” the guard replied.

“Let me see, the entry pass issued by the President-”

Karelin started, but the guard interrupted.

“You don’t need to show it! We’ve already confirmed your name, identification, and validity from the previous pass. Besides, Karelin-nim-”

Before the guard could finish, Karelin handed over the pass.

Understanding the guard’s gesture of utmost respect, Karelin smiled brightly and adjusted his robe.

“Could you please open it for me?”

“Please wait a moment.”

Before Karelin could say anything else, the door opened swiftly.

Karelin nodded to the guards and walked straight in. He only had one reason to visit the place where the White Reaper’s Ghost was isolated – to find Leeha.

He was searching for Leeha, the figure who had entered the White Reaper’s abode and allegedly harassed the Lord in Hamina Castle a few days earlier. While most giant users dismissed it as a passing story, those affiliated with the Shazrashian Federation government knew the truth behind the rumors.

“He’s quite famous, huh? Affiliated with Fibiel, so he might be relatively friendly, but it’s hard to tell”, one user said.

Of course, for the Shazrashian Federation officials, the crucial point was Leeha’s purpose. Why had he come to find the Human Flesh Hunter’s Ghost?


“No, more precisely, we need to know why he fought with the Human Flesh Hunter”, Karelin muttered. He had already heard some facts through the guards of this place, such as gunshots sounding, the sky darkening, and numerous lightning strikes.

No matter how it was reported, it was clear that a battle had taken place.

“The user was dispatched as an investigator, but… ugh, this place is bothersome. Is he already dead?”

Karelin sighed.

The guards immediately reported what they had witnessed, and the post-investigation was initiated by the Shazrashian Federation to prepare for future events. Karelin carefully scanned the surroundings. In the dead of winter when not even the sound of animals could be heard, there were no traces of human presence. It had been an hour and a half since the last noises, and nothing out of the ordinary could be detected. Was someone hiding?

The giant cautiously stepped forward. Users from Chazlathian guild never ventured to this place. Most people didn’t even know such a place existed. And the few who did, knew that they couldn’t cross paths with the White Reaper. One step, two steps, three steps…

Karelin had no desire to come to this place, but he had his reasons why he ended up here, and they were crystal clear.

“If we can handle only the Human Flesh Hunter… then it’s more than possible to expand the resource development beyond this land as it was recorded that there are plentiful mines here in the Beyond of the Middle Earth’s world view. From a user’s perspective? ‘Map expansion. Chazlathian territory grows larger. We might even discover places where new dungeons or raid monsters reside.’

For those affiliated with Chazlathian, ultimately, there was no choice but to accept the consequences, whether it involved NPCs or the users.

“If there’s an issue, it must be the intention of Ha Leeha. If the reason for fighting against the Human Flesh Hunter is different from our intentions-”

Paaaang-!

Karelin halted his steps. He sensed movement above the hill on his left.

Swiftly, he turned his head around. From the ground to the sky, something was leaping up—eyes bundled with a few pebbles.

It was clear that something had struck that spot.

“Wha–”

And at that moment,

“Taaaang——…! – Human hunter!”

Gunshots echoed from afar.

Karelin hastily crouched down and darted towards the lower side of the hill on his right. But this time, gunshots rang out from a much closer distance.

Tuaaaaah——!!


“Damn it.”

Struggling through the ground, he barely managed to lift his torso and look towards the direction of the shots.

It was evident that the sounds came from where the objects had previously leaped up.

“What’s going on? What the-“Argh!

Once again, the pebbles sprang up from that spot.

Before the sound of gunfire could be heard in the distance, gunshots rang out near where the pebbles had sprung up.

Whizzzz–_——!!

Taahh ———–……! Only then did Karelin realize.

“H-haiga……. 『Detect』!”

They are fighting.

He used the transparent removal skill but was even more surprised.

“Nothing?”

Nothing was visible.

“Why?”

Even when he stared with his eyes wide, there was nothing on the left hilltop.

Something kept flying and hitting, and there were gunshots that made his ears ring as if they would burst, but that was all.

“Why is there nothing-”

Boommm–_—–plosion!

Karelin smashed into the ground at an incredible speed.

Dozens of objects suddenly appeared out of nowhere and began to fly, even though there was clearly nothing there. A skill? No, there was definitely no one there! Where did the skill come from- huh!”

Without a chance to react, Karelin was suddenly overwhelmed by a blinding light that was brighter than white. The giant lowered his head, covering his eyes.

Only when the light finally faded could he raise his head. Then, instinctively, he took out a crystal ball.

『Kaaahhh–__-

In the empty space was undoubtedly a dragon that had never been seen before.

“Si-silver dragon- no, not silver. What in the world…!?”

The platinum dragon, Bahamut, roared.

The crystal in Karelin’s hand started to crack and shatter with a sound.

“Damn it, not even aiming towards Bahamut! The camouflage cooldown is 12 hours!”

He was moving fast. There was no time for self-recrimination.

After investing nearly two hours to climb up to the top of the hill! Perfectly understanding the layout of the village buildings and sniper positions!

“Being attacked preemptively! How? How did they see me?”

Was it because he had smoothed out the snow with his body? That couldn’t be it. The traces in the snow were left only behind him.

In other words, the white ghost that one had to look at head-on should never have first noticed it.

“Haah, haah, still, by looking at the building layout, hah, I roughly figured out the positions through the bullet angles and gunshots.”

He fired multiple rounds towards that spot. However, there was no response. In an attempt to accurately pinpoint the location of the White Reaper, Leeha summoned Bahamut, but the White Reaper did not fire a single shot towards the dragon. Realizing this, Leeha deactivated the camouflaged and swiftly moved to another location at full speed.

“Curses, ugh, and on top of that, phew, who’s this strange guy who popped in out of nowhere?”

After running for a while in search of a new sniping point, Leeha suddenly discovered something.

“Insane… That’s right. It’s indeed the White Reaper.”

How was the White Reaper able to spot him? In a way, this was a rather simple issue. The irritation oozing from his words!

“Breath… ugh! Damn it, is the defense too thorough!?”

Leeha opened his bag, took out the White Corpse Potion, and immediately put it back.

“No. The 100-minute time limit is too tight. I can’t use it here right now.”

Above all, wasn’t this potion meant for resisting abnormal status? Even without using the White Corpse Potion, Leeha’s achievement from before had raised his ice※ resistance by 30%.

“I’ll hold on like this for now. In the worst-case scenario, I might have to resort to it briefly, but not now. If they want proof over there, then follow me.”

Leeha took a pinch of the eyes lying on the ground and put it into his mouth to locate his position.

“Continuing left from the left hill, after crossing a little over the adjacent hill, when viewed from the entrance, about 8 o’clock direction of the village should be visible.”

What buildings were visible from that direction? How about the windows of each building? Which sniping points could be aimed at?

Did the White Reaper see his movements?

“Didn’t see me… he didn’t.”

The gunshots could be heard, serving as evidence. Bahamut in the air did not disappear. So, where were the recent gunshots aimed at?

“Where I was just now. Right where my breath had last exhaled.”

Leeha stopped in his tracks. If Leeha hadn’t been there, he now realized.

“Alright, good.”

Leeha swiftly sketched a map in the snowy field from his memory.

Where would the White Reaper head to? If Leeha were the White Reaper, from where and at what angle would he aim for a sniping point? How many such points would there be, and where would be the best spot for Leeha to see those points the most?

“If it’s about proof, this must be it, right? If it’s about proof, I won’t lose either.”

Leeha remembered Sergeant Kim’s words. Indeed, the White Reaper’s proof within Middle Earth was thorough. The thoroughness of the Baroque was appreciated by Leeha.

“The more thorough it is, the more you are just a 『ghost of the past』. And I… even after you, I know quite a lot of snipers who left a mark in the history of sniping. Thanks to learning from the best sniper in the history of the Republic of Korea Army.”

Leeha re-drew the map in his mind and began to strategize. (To be continued…)
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“Nothing seems to be going as planned…”

Karelin’s eyes were wide open with fear, unable to make a move.

What would happen if he took even one step from this spot?

The fear of not knowing where the attack would come from or how it would start was overwhelming.

“That dragon from earlier? Disappeared…right? Surely it’s not dead, or maybe it’s invisible? Can’t use detect because the cooldown is up.”

Of all the dragons he had encountered while playing Middle Earth, this one was the largest in size. Its majestic figure and colors were beyond anything he could have imagined.

It had been 40 minutes since the dragon that roared through the air disappeared, but Karelin hadn’t been able to move an inch since.

“Should I go back with a return scroll? One crystal may have been shattered, but I might be able to escape. However… if I go back now…”

He wouldn’t be able to fulfill his duties as an investigator. Frowning, Karelin scanned his surroundings. But nothing had changed.

“Did Ha Leeha die? No, if he did, there would have been some sort of reaction. What happened to the Human Flesh Hunter?”

Karelin was crouched behind the crest of the right hill. The left hilltop, where the action had taken place, was quite a distance away, and now the terrain made it impossible to see the area.

Despite wanting to rush over and check immediately, he knew that as soon as he passed between the right and left hills, an attack would commence, so he couldn’t bring herself to move.

“The Human Flesh Hunter’s attacks are not just terrifying, but… it’s frustratingly maddening.”

While there was also fear of being attacked, the real worry for his was the fight between Ha Leeha and the Human Flesh Hunter. He could potentially become a ‘variable’ in their battle. If he interceded in their fight and inadvertently sent it spiraling into an unpredictable direction, how would he resolve the ensuing issues?

“If my actions hinder Ha Leeha’s survival or lead to failure in defeating the Human Flesh Hunter, it would be a bigger problem.”

At least the Giant users from Shazrashian would not even consider passing through this place. For them, this location was just recognized as ‘impassable territory’, but even for the mere sake of overcoming the ‘clogged vein’ of this place, Ha Leeha’s victory was absolutely necessary. So, he waited.

As the noon sunlight transitioned into the afternoon, the colors of dusk began to set in gradually.

After cautiously repeating the action of brushing off the falling snow several hundred times, another light finally flashed.

Another burst of red light that seemed to explode from beyond the ridge on the left hill emitted an ominous glow.


“Fire magic?”

The figure wasn’t clear, but along with the red light bursting out, the beastly roar that followed could be clearly heard by Karelin.

“Summoning? Summoning magic? Is it the dragon from before? What kind of skill is being used here?”

Karelin squinted as he looked up at the peak of the left hill. In that moment, a figure appeared in his line of sight. A person running swiftly from the left hill towards the direction of the right hill, holding a black rifle.

“Ha, Leeha!It’s Ha Leeha, wait! Can I go out?!”

It was Leeha. Even though he was blatantly walking around, this time, not even a single gunshot could be heard.

“When he didn’t reveal himself, there’s chaos with the gunshots and skills, but now that he’s showing herself, it’s quieter?”

Why isn’t Leeha getting attacked? Even after revealing himself, why isn’t the Human Flesh Hunter attacking Leeha? From Karelin’s perspective, nothing made sense. Leeha’s small figure was gradually getting closer. The decreasing distance between Karelin and Leeha also meant that their confrontation was imminent.

“If the Human Flesh Hunter isn’t attacking… Alright, judging from the situation, he must be coming in this direction. I should talk to his then.”

There wouldn’t be many opportunities. When the distance between Leeha and herself was closest, Karelin made up his mind. As Leeha’s body reached the end of the left hill, he took a deep breath.

“Ah-”

Before he could finish his words, gunshots rang out incessantly from somewhere, interrupting him.

“C-Kellok, cough, cough! Leeha-”

Despite coughing violently, Karelin thought about Leeha, who was still running. Even though he wasn’t making any attacking motions, what did the distant gunshots mean?

“Did the Human Flesh Hunter attack Leeha? Huh?”

Karelin, who barely lifted his head, still couldn’t understand the situation. The gunshots of the Human Flesh Hunter had only rung out once.

And now, as Leeha continued to run towards the right, suddenly, he turned his body and started running towards the left.

“What… what is he doing?”

Was he trying to create confusion by running left and right? Just as Karelin was about to call out to Leeha, gunshots rang out. Ba-a-a-ang——…! Suddenly, Leeha, who was running, stopped abruptly. Karelin couldn’t decide where to look. Was it Leeha, where the gunshots rang out? Or was it the fleeting dot in the sky? Or perhaps the sudden appearance of white light in the distance?

“Why aren’t you shooting?!”


Leeha tried to summon Koma using ‘Soul Link’ to create a decoy, but the White Reaper didn’t shoot. After transforming into the spirit of fire, he gave the order to run towards the village. He also commanded to destroy everything in sight. Even though Koma ran out as ordered, the White Reaper did not shoot Koma.

“No, it’s understandable why he didn’t shoot Koma. But why…”

Leeha saw “another self” moving away from his position.

“Why isn’t Jellypong being shot either? It looks exactly like 『me』.”

It was a moment when the 『Heroic Spyglass of Kojobu』 that deceived Toon and Kaztor shone once again.

In the sniper battle between Leeha and the unknown sniper, a reddish light flashed as they summoned something?

Anyone could tell that it was a deception.

Therefore, Leeha set two traps simultaneously. When the enemy was convinced it was a first-level deception with Koma summoning, they would then doubt the next move.

Pretending to “obey the enemy’s intentions.”

That was the moment Jellypong emerged as a second-level deception. If Leeha turned his head towards Jellypong as it revealed its form and ran towards them?

The plan was for Leeha to immediately counterattack by capturing the angle of impact and gunshot, as well as various traces on the ground caused by the recoil.

“Not shooting… but not fighting!”

However, the White Reaper did not shoot either Koma or Jellypong. As Jellypong almost simultaneously revealed its form to track the White Reaper, Leeha had no choice but to remain in a motionless stance without revealing himself.

“It’s more frustrating not being able to see it directly.”

There were already marked points where the White Reaper had to be located, about three spots.

Leeha, who had been simulating the operation for hours, was anxious. If the White Reaper was at a different point, all plans would have to be redrawn from the beginning.

Lying on the hill, Leeha looked up at the sky. Although the red twilight sky was ominous, it was also a situation that made him smile.

“Reveal myself directly. Is this a challenge?”

He would not fall for any provocation or bait. The White Reaper had seen through everything. And there he was, exposing his head and waiting for the barrel to be pointed at him.

“Alright, if that’s your wish… I’ll do it. It means I can’t kill you from a safe place. After all, it’s impossible to kill someone who’s already dead”, his eyes, previously tense, softened and slid down following the contour of his lips. In this tense situation, making a coarse joke felt like a way to lighten his mood.


He adjusted his posture once again and prepared to expose his head for the second time.

“It’ll only be a brief moment.”

He needed to focus on three points. Observing any movement in these three spots, even the slightest tremor in the air, was crucial.

“If I had seen it, I wouldn’t have to go through this trouble”, he quipped lightly, chuckling to steel his resolve.

The spot where Jellypong and Koma had went was about 50 meters away. Even if he exposed his head, it would be difficult for the White Reaper to fire instantaneously. It would take at least a second to confirm, aim, and pull the trigger—actually, it was even faster than one second, more like a fraction of a second.

“Well then, shall we give it a try?” he thought inwardly, counting down silently before finally exposing his head. There was no time to spare for each point to scan; he rolled his eyes as if scanning each spot.

First, he had to capture the three sniper points and calculate the distance. His eyes swept the scene as if scanning it and his brain simultaneously completed the mission.

“Point 1, distance around 1,301…? Huh!?”

When he tried to recalculate the distance, a sense of foreboding washed over him. His instinctively lowered his head. Thud!

Something felt like seizing his head, accompanied by a slight pain in his cervical spine. He collapsed on the ground, his eyes previously focused wide, now shut tightly against the pain. In that moment, a notification popped up in front of his eyes. 『Buff: The effect of the Wind Controller has been dispelled.』

“01?”The cool wind brushing against the back of his neck was refreshing. The fresh sensation that didn’t quite match the notification window of Buff’s expiration? He quickly realized what it was.

“This crazy-”

As he turned around with a start, what came into view below was a hole-ridden hat lying on the ground. 『Rare Hat with Windstorm Feathers』 The very hat he got after defeating the Harpy Boss and obtain the “Ignore Projectile Wind Direction/Speed”! Just then, a gunshot rang in his ears. Leeha piled up on himself, miraculously evading it with his keen senses, but losing the hat in return.

“The, the wind… Where is the wind blowing now? I mean… the wind direction?”

There was no hint of any sway at the first point. By the process of elimination, it must have been shot from either the second or third point. But even if that’s the case, what should he do now? His mind was thrown into chaos by the sudden appearance of variables. Is this punk not coming to his senses? – Hm? At that moment, a voice echoed in his mind.

“Sergeant Kim?”

Wheeeeeeeee— The knife-like wind struck his cheek. He briefly thought it was his imagination, but it wasn’t a mere fantasy.

A sniper is a universal entity, a single race. So, by shooting at yourself, it’s like you’re shooting at yourself. Where in the world is something that easy, I mean, seriously?

In a life-or-death moment, he was instinctively reminded of his teacher’s advice that would dispel his complex feelings.

“But the tone of what you mentioned earlier seems oddly different.”

By the time thoughts of doubt about his own memory crept in, all the senses that had just been bewilderingly present vanished. Wind direction? Wind speed? The position of the White Reaper? You already know it! He knew. He just hadn’t consciously verified the things his subconscious had been doing relentlessly.
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“The third point… the icicle that was on the window sill flew off. There is a record of the real White Reaper compressing even the surrounding snow tightly with the recoil of the rifle to prevent the snow from sliding off. However, he couldn’t compress the slightly accumulated snow on the window sill into a ‘lump.'”

The White Reaper chose a sniper point that was too safe, hiding his body.

If he had really disappeared, if he had truly shot in the snowfield, he would have been absolutely impossible to find.

“No, that’s not it. I made it that way.”

After revealing his breath, they engaged in a sniper battle with a margin of error of 10 meters.

They twisted their bodies, avoiding each other’s bullets with strained muscles, deceiving each other’s eyes and brains. As a result, the White Reaper had to take a sniper shot that could see ‘every direction’ without missing a single point and had to erase all his traces in the snowfield, instead looking at somewhere through the window sill.

“There is no coincidence.”

Every coincidence was a necessity formed by his own efforts.

“The window sill of the third sniper point. The body of the Mosin-Nagant rifle would have been placed there. The window sill vibrated slightly due to the recoil.”

It was nothing short of confirming the traces of ants crawling. In reality, there was no way to confirm whether the icicle had flown off or not.

“However”,

The figure lying in the prone position flipped his body completely.

If someone saw him, he would look like a crazy person lying on a snow-covered hill, enjoying the winter. Moreover, if he had the muzzle pointing towards the sky in that position, it would make him seem even more so.

As he lay aiming at the sky, a voice echoed in his mind once again.

This time, there were two people.

When it reaches that point, it’s not about ‘seeing and shooting.’ What should I say? Can I call it ‘believing and shooting’? You just have to believe.

“Believe!”

The words of Miss Elizabeth and Sergeant Sergeant Kim merged in his mind.

“To the furthest left of the third point’s window sill, the distance is 1,427.2 meters. Primary wind direction is southeast, wind speed 9/8, secondary wind direction is south-southeast, wind speed 7,200/8.”


He pulled the trigger towards the sky, pulling out the information he subconsciously knew.

Then, trusting himself, he pulled the trigger without hesitation.

『Curve shot』

“Taaaaang-……!

What shot up into the sky was a small dot. The small dot changed direction in midair, heading towards the worn window frame of a dilapidated lodge. By the time the echo of the gunshot subsided, a white light burst forth from that spot.

‘Haah…. Haah…?’

The outcome of the shot was already known.

Babam-!

Accompanied by the sound of achievements popping up, blinding system notification windows cluttered the screen. But at that moment, there was no chance to see them.

“Not even taking a look……. Geez.”

He didn’t look at the target. Though he believed that it would be there. He didn’t shoot at the target either. He merely believed that he would reach it. He visualized the massive curve of the bullet flying, felt the difference in wind direction and speed as it curved.

“Just trust, and shoot.”

Could that be described as knowing it?

The point where it curved was where the bullet had been fired at an altitude of more than 1007 meters. He had no idea how the wind in that airspace differed from the ground where the bullet was shot, what the wind speed would be as it curved towards the potential direction of the White Reaper from that point. He hadn’t scattered grass to observe or watched the tremor of smoke or other objects.

“But how did I really know?”

Should it be called instinctive measurement? He couldn’t properly explain what he had done even to himself.

Anyway, after realizing that his unbelievable sniper attempt had succeeded for the first time, what struck him first wasn’t pleasure or satisfaction. As soon as he fired the bullet, the first thought that came to him.

“Dang, the recoil is a killer. Shooting lying down kinda hurts the stomach a bit too, doesn’t it? Hehe.”

It was the recoil. He laughed unconsciously, rubbing his stomach.

『Myong, myongmyong!』


“Oh, Jellypong?”

“Kyuuuuung…~….?”

“Even Koma?! You there. I told you to go down and search, didn’t I? Why did you come back again? I told you not to come until you’ve taken a hit like a Jellypong.”

Another ‘Leeha’ approached with a small child, giggling and staggering.

When Koma saw Leeha, perhaps feeling reassured, it had returned to its usual bear form, even excluding the power of the fire spirit.

『Myong! Myong!』

“Yeah, yeah, were you worried about me? But isn’t it embarrassing for me to mumble with my face like this? Let’s take off the glasses.”

When Leeha reached out, Jellypong took off its glasses from its face – Leeha still couldn’t pinpoint exactly where Jellypong’s face was, as it was different from the incident during the last time it wore the glasses.

At that moment, Leeha couldn’t help but burst with laughter.

“Hehehe, Jellypong! Koma!”

“Kyu, Kyung?”

『Myong?』

“I did it! Look at this, this is an achievement! Huh!? It’s me! Uh-haha!”

『You have obtained the achievement ‘Invisible hand’.』

『You have obtained achievement: Recognition of the Panrind Sniper.』

Leeha held hands with Koma and Jellypong, dancing clumsily. Just as they were sharing a brief moment of joy, a voice was heard from behind him.

“Quite a spectacular sight…”

“Who’s there?”

Leeha reflexively turned around, aiming the rifle. Meanwhile, Koma summoned the power of the fire spirit once again.

“Kyuung?” 『Myong-myong!』


“Ah, I’m not an enemy! My name is Karelin… Perhaps you’ve heard of me before…”

Karelin raised both hands in response to the threats from Leeha, Koma, and Jellypong.

Leeha’s eyes widened at the sound of his name.

Although this was their first actual meeting, there was no way Leeha wouldn’t know his name.”Carel- Karelin? The 12th-ranked player, that Karelin?”

“Phew, I was worried you wouldn’t know, but thankfully you do. Yes, that’s correct.”

Karelin shrugged off the robe he was wearing, tossing it aside. It was a gesture that served as nothing short of proof of his identity. The loose robe didn’t just appear baggy due to the garment’s design. It was the iron-like muscles and perfectly toned muscles hidden within the robe that served as a testament to his identity. Most notably, the clothing he wore under the robe was the type most despised by Middle Earth users, especially male users. Ranked 12th in Middle Earth and known for his formidable physical skills, Karelin’s combat style was quite different from the norm. While conventional combat styles in Middle Earth typically combined buffs and strikes, such as those of the Pei Wu or Hwangryong guild, or the Daoists Baek and Mu, his combat style was somewhat unconventional.

“The wrestler who shattered a troll’s vertebrae, leading to instant death… Karelin!”

Bearing the same name as the strongest anthropoid primate, Karelin’s job in Middle Earth was none other than a wrestler. With a face resembling that of a gorilla, he smiled with a seemingly innocent expression.

※ ※

“Oh, so you’ve seen that old video.”

“Yes, I have! I watched it and listened to it.”

One of the comments Leeha heard from Kijung before he turned off the Combat Assist System was, about Tale, who ran a kendo dojang and was stronger than users of the same level, and ‘another user’ who was said to have shattered a troll’s neck with a wrestling technique.

“Oh wow!? That person… had such a stylish combat video, it was truly amazing!”

It almost felt like watching a celebrity, didn’t it? Even though Karelin’s face alone wasn’t enough to recognize his identity, Leeha had also seen his videos on YouTube. There was a time when Leeha wanted to delve deeper into the musketeer job while watching Karelin’s recorded combat style.

“Ah, cough, um, yes. So, uh… what can I do for you?”

Leeha quickly changed his hesitant expression and asked Karelin.

While it was an exciting moment for a well-known figure to recognize their name and strike up a conversation, it might not be the case at this particular moment. This was the restricted area of Shazrashian, and since Karelin was a member of the Shazrashian Giants, it might not be ideal.

“Well, first of all, I would like to express my gratitude on behalf of the President. The Human Flesh Hunter were quite challenging even for us… Haha, judging by your reaction just now, it seems like you managed to take care of him, am I right?”

“I didn’t exactly get rid of them.”

“Oh, that’s a shame. Well, no worries. Judging by the fact that you didn’t attack me while I walked here, you probably had some kind of quest to clear… and it seems like taking care of the Human Flesh Hunter has quieted things down. May I ask about the details?”

Karelin approached with a smile. Leeha couldn’t help but think of the Silver Dragon, arzenmacht and Ram Hwajung. However, while they might have appeared cold and distant due to their abrupt expressions and indifferent tone, Karelin seemed to be in a slightly different situation. Simply put, even if a gorilla were to smile, they would appear more docile than him.

“Above all, that tone, that attitude-”

Leeha couldn’t grasp Karelin’s exact purpose. The only thing he could understand at the moment was one thing.

“No, I’m sorry, but I may not be able to answer your question. And, um, I would prefer it if you didn’t approach me as I approach the White Reaper.”

“Huh?”

“No, it’s probably related to the quest. I’m just trying to be cautious to some extent. I don’t intend to be disrespectful to Karelin, but- this quest is very… very, very important to me.”

Karelin is of the Giant race. 『Achievement: Recognition of Panrind Sniper (S)』 Congratulations! You have gained recognition from the Panrind sniper who terrified the Shazrashians!

“The rough fingers of Giants can’t move delicately in such cold. If someone can achieve such a precise snipe, Panrind’s blood must be in their veins.”

Your successful shot in extreme cold has deeply moved the renowned sniper. As long as you don’t offend him, he won’t attack you in the future. Reward: Agility +25, Ice Resistance +10%, You won’t be attacked by the White Reaper’s Ghost

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Recognition of Panrind Sniper』.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effects will be applied.

Effect: Agility +50, Ice Resistance +20% Another S-rank achievement significantly increasing Leeha’s attack power. It also raise the total ice resistance by 30%.

However, the most important thing in this achievement was not that.

“Not being attacked by the White Reaper’s Ghost… that’s the clue.”

The speaker carefully examined the text written in the achievement description.

The White Reaper will not attack you in the future. However, only if ‘you do not offend the White Reaper’s Ghost!’

“What do you mean… Is there something wrong if I approach Ha Leeha?”

“Well, it seems like it might be – no, just in case. Just in case. Please don’t come any closer.”

Whether the White Reaper’s Ghost will consider Karelin a Krabavi or not, at least it won’t consider Karelin a Panrind.

So?

“If I show that I am just talking or being together for no reason and end up being disliked… Damn it, even though it feels like I’ve already cleared it! I have to know how this damn game will go!”

Just being with Karelin could potentially offend the White Reaper’s Ghost.

The speaker was being cautious about this point, and from Karelin’s perspective of not understanding the language, there was no reason to feel good about it.

“As you may have heard from the NPCs- people here… this place is a restricted area for Shazrashians. Do you realize that you threatened 216 Rangers, extorted the Lord of Hamina Castle to find out the location of this place, and even entered recklessly?”

“Of c- course! That’s my fault, but, um… how should I put it, I haven’t opposed Shazrashian’s interests or done anything wrong? It’s just that there’s a bit of a problem, that’s all.”

The speaker hastily explained their situation, but it wasn’t going to be cleared up easily with a tangled situation.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Karelin’s name might be a reference to Aleksandr Karelin who was an undefeated wrestler for 13 years.

Aleksandr Karelin is probably the greatest living athlete. He retired from Greco-Roman wrestling with three Olympic gold medals, 887 wins and two losses, both by a single point.

This is him:
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“Phew… Understood. So, what should I do? I have something to say, can I wait here for a bit?”

“Oh no, uh, well, I was thinking of coming to find you and talking to you later. How does that sound?”

Karelin’s twisted expression began to regain its calm once again. One of the truly frightening reasons about him was this.

It wasn’t just his frightening appearance, but the fact that his usual innocent personality and his ‘twisted personality when angry’ were completely different.

‘Karelin, like Nara, works for the Shazrarsian palace, well, not the government, but relatively well-analyzed for those who work for the community.’

It was even said that one might see King Kong if he got angry. As he didn’t want to cause any trouble here, he tried to pacify him as gently as possible.

“Understood. Then I will wait for you to find me at the Remlin Palace.”

“Re-Remlin Palace…! I’ll inform you immediately.”

Upon hearing the reply below, Karelin’s innocent face returned, and he smiled.

“Alright, please take care. I’ll be waiting for you in a bit.”

Then, in the blink of an eye, he disappeared with a return scroll.

Watching him vanish from his spot, he let out a sigh.

“Phew… It’s a different kind of pressure compared to Igor. Giants seem to be somewhat different.”

『Myongmyong!』

“Hm?”

“Well, Jin Gonggong’s not like that. I’ll get scolded for saying this. Should we go now? Let’s go, Jellypong, this way!”

『Myong!』

Shwaaaaah-!

Jellypong clung to Leeha’s body once again. However, it was no longer in the form of a ‘vest’.


“It’s all squishy and damp now! It feels like a neck brace hugging my neck”, Leeha thought as Jellypong clung around his neck, more like a neck protector than a vest.

As Jellypong changed its form, resembling more of a winter scarf, Leeha reached for his hat that had flown off his head.

“Hmm, should I sew it back on or do I need to find a new one.”

Though it was a rare item that only dropped from the Harpy field boss, the area where it appeared was unpopular, and Leeha wasn’t even sure how many times he would have to farm to get it.

Feeling a bit disappointed, Leeha stashed the hat in his bag and hopped on the back of Koma.

“Let’s go, little buddy! Towards that building, one o’clock!”

“Kyuuuung!”

Kugukuguk, kugukuguk, kugukuguk-!

Feeling like riding on a large eye patch made of fur, Leeha aimed at the third point he had sniped, the abandoned building, and moved towards it.

The place still emitted a white light.

※※ ※ ※

“Alright then… Koma, you can go back now. You did well.”

“Kyuung!”

Leeha patted Koma’s fur and sent it off with a pat on the back. Koma disappeared with a satisfied expression. After adjusting his clothes and taking a deep breath, Leeha finally opened the door of the abandoned building. Creek!

With the sound of the rusty latch, Leeha walked into the building. Though slightly nervous, his steps were that of someone eligible to clear the quest, filled with confidence.

“Hello there!”

However, upon seeing the White Reaper, Leeha could only manage a foolish mix of admiration and greeting.

“Is it you?”

The translucent figure had a human shape, yet it was not entirely transparent.

The White Reaper emitted a continuous white light, shimmering mysteriously. What was most astonishing was the shape of the wings sprouting from his back. He wasn’t swaying as if floating in the air, but his form was actually buoyant. It was only natural for those who saw his appearance, with a solemn voice and an almost divine feel, to be amazed.


“Uh, yes! I, uh, am the one who… uh, shot Shimo-nim.”

『That’s what I meant.』 The figure of the White Reaper altered abruptly. The spot where his right eyeball had been was now gaping voidly. As the wide-eyed Leeha stared at the almost bulbous sight, the corner of the White Reaper’s mouth lifted slightly.

『That was a brilliant shot. I couldn’t even tell where the shot was coming from, but the bullet passed right by my spot.』

“Um, uh, I’m sorry.”

Leeha stammered, but his expression did not help him at all. Instead, as he looked at Even with a puzzled smile, the White Reaper also chuckled. Unlike Elizabeth or Brownliss, the White Reaper was different. Though not one of the Musketeers, Leeha believed the White Reaper had reached the pinnacle of sniping with a set 480 confirmed hits.

He didn’t feel elated to be acknowledged by such a presence. 『Achievement: Invisible Hand(A)』 Congratulations! You successfully attacked your target without being seen by the enemy or seeing the enemy. Unlike swinging or shooting aimlessly, your attack with a clear target and precise intent left the enemy utterly bewildered! They are now in awe of you, fearing that the “Invisible Hand” could strike anytime, anywhere.

Rewards: Strength +6, agility +6, intelligence +6, status Effect when attacking: Stun Application Probability +2% You are the third registrant of the “Invisible Hand” achievement. The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the existing effect will be applied an additional 200%.

Effects: Strength +12, agility +12, intelligence +12 Status Effect when attacking: Stun Application Probability +4% “A complete surprise or… wait, is this a bonus from somewhere?”

For every successful attack, there was a chance to stun the enemy, adding another layer of excitement! Pondering this, Leeha suddenly felt like he might know the identity of one of the two other achievers beside himself. 『No need to apologize. How many times did I not hit a few heads to test you out? Seems like you didn’t use that magic tonight.』

“You remember!?”

Leeha gazed at him with an exuberant expression, like a fan garnering attention from a celebrity. The White Reaper nodded. 『Courage in the face of danger, unwavering tenacity, and self-belief. You resemble a Paldrin. No, you might be even more similar to me in having unconventional tactics.』

“It’s only natural!”

I share the same name as my teacher! We were even both in the military, there’s so much to say about that! But what exactly is an unconventional tactic? Do you have any unique abilities up your sleeve? Oh, and how did you manage to avoid being hit when the lightning magic was striking down like crazy back then? Just wanted to throw all this out randomly.

Even though he was just an NPC; and this was in Middle Earth, opportunities to converse with the legendary sniper were scarce.

‘Above all, it’s interesting that he knows the keyword ‘trust’ as well. If I were to ask a White Reaper about the concept of trust and devotion, wouldn’t I get a clearer answer?’

Remembering Kim’s advice and Elizabeth’s guidance, he had succeeded in sniping the White Reaper, but he still didn’t fully comprehend the concept.

Wanting to gain even a bit more information or hints, it was only natural for him to thirst for a single word of wisdom from the legendary senior.

However, there was no time to spare.

『By the way… Can you listen to my story?』

『You have completed the quest I took action. I had no choice but to-1』


『Intimacy with Shimo increases by 30%.』

『Common fame in the Lope Continent increases by 300.』

『Public reputation of the Shazrashian Federation drops by 1,000.』

“Great, not only intimacy but fame too! And the Shazrashian public rep-… it dropped?”

The public reputation in Fibiel was overflowing. The Continental Common Fame was not lacking at all. However, there was hardly any chance for the public reputation of other countries to be accumulated by Leeha. And yet, decreased?

“This is… unsettling.”

At that moment, a holographic window appeared before him.

※ ※

『I took action. I had no choice but to-2.』

Explanation:

“I feel like the blood flowing within you reminds me of myself. I only want to speak because of who you are. All I desire is one thing. I want to help our still oppressed brothers and sisters to break free from discrimination… that’s all I ask. Since I cannot leave this place, would you please meet with the supreme authority of Krabavi on my behalf and deliver this message? If he promises and fulfills it, I will disappear from here immediately.”

Past mistakes continue to haunt the present. As the combined federation of the former Krabavi and Paldrin nations, deeply rooted in the Shazrashian region, grapples with eradicating racial discrimination and ensuring it, the way forward becomes apparent. Content: Human rights charter for all minority factions under Shazrashian affiliation. Reward: “I acted. I had no choice but to-3.”

Condition for Failure: Rejected by the Shazrashian Federation government. Penalty for Failure: “Revived White Reaper” – Do you accept?

“What- What’s this? A letter?”

Leeha had to read the quest window several times.

“Rights… No, that’s not it. Oh, back in high school – although it was a long time ago(?), I could vaguely remember. 『Document on Rights Described in Legal Grammar』! Oh, that’s what it was. Yeah, then the meaning is-”

It seemed that this quest’s main content would be to draft a document ensuring rights for all minority races, including Paldrinians, without discrimination.

And the method for that?

Considering the nature of Middle Earth where hints and answers are always found within the problems, there was only one obvious solution. It was to meet the highest authority, the current president, get their promise, have it approved in the federal government, and then proclaimed by the president. Leeha quickly grasped the gist of the quest.

However, understanding didn’t solve everything. The problem lingered on. Usually, if a quest fails, it’s over. The quest disappears, or in extreme cases, the course of the quest itself changes.

“Yeah, even the quest right before this was like that. Just doing one task before this quest… 『Revived White Reaper』 was canceled, and there was a penalty for failing to return the quest route to its original state! But now – what’s this?”

The failure condition is when the Shazrashian Federation rejects this matter. That was a very real possibility, so I had to negotiate diligently with the federal government to prevent such an outcome.

But what if I fail? The quest doesn’t just disappear?

“Instead of disappearing, it’s…”

It’s another quest. A quest where you follow the route of success if you succeed and the route of failure if you fail?

At least, it was a form that Leeha had never seen before while in Middle Earth.

Whether I succeed or fail, I must face this quest and destiny together.

“Um, well… I’m not sure if I can do this so easily-”

『You lack confidence.』

“I lack confidence. I can’t have confidence in everything, you know.”

Leeha’s expression darkened sharply after hearing that response. However, he was smiling.

“Well, of course, even if I lack confidence, I can’t just not do the work, right? Upholding the rights of minority races in the Shazrashian Federation, including Paldrinians…”

Leeha still didn’t have a clear idea of how to negotiate or what negotiations to make. However, he knew from the start that this was related to 『discrimination』.

‘Phew! Simply showing off skills won’t end the second job advancement. Initially, what was needed for the second job advancement was skill and keyword. Only those who can solve both problems will become a Middle Earth ascender. So, there’s no escaping it, might as well do it.’

“I’ll give it a try.”

Leeha pressed the accept button. Even stronger light poured out from Leeha’s body.

(To be continued…)
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『I ask of you. I will be here until then.』

“Oh, by the way, is that rifle on your back the Mosin-Nagant? Is it the 1428 version?”

『Huh?』

‘Even if I ask how you managed to disguise yourself so perfectly during our battle, and how you saw much further than recorded data without a scope, I suppose I’ll get my answers later. There’s nothing to say for now.’

“Ah… I see. It’s too early for that then, I suppose.”

Their intimacy level is merely at 30%.

At present, the only permission Leeha has is not to be attacked by the White Reaper. However, observing the White Reaper’s reaction, Leeha harbored some expectations.

If the intimacy level reached 100%, it could mean that the White Reaper might reveal something that could strengthen Leeha.

“In that case, I’ll be on my way.”

Taking out a return scroll, Leeha also realized how fortunate he was. He received a quest related to the Shazrashian Federation?

Shouldn’t someone related to the Shazrashian Federation be waiting for Leeha?

“Hehe, I can’t just lie around doing nothing.”

Sending a whisper to Karelin, Leeha warped from Hamina Castle to ‘Phietari’, the Shazrashian capital. The goal was the majestic former royal palace, currently the presidential palace, ‘Remlin Palace’, located in the city square.

“Hmm, but what if ‘I took action. There was no other way’ quest and ‘Resurrected White Reaper’ quest… What will happen? If the linked quest probably leads to a second job confirmation or something like that, and if it fails…:”

Leeha swallowed dryly for a moment. The quest is named ‘Resurrected White Reaper’.

If the outcome indicates that the rights of minority groups are not protected, does it mean the White Reaper’s Ghost will be resurrected, wreaking havoc and destruction everywhere?

“It’s driving me crazy. It might even become a 『National Level Raid Quest』 for Shazrashian users, hehe.”

How will this affect Leeha?

With quests being triggered, Leeha believed it wouldn’t lead to a complete failure.


“I shouldn’t dwell on failure from the start… This isn’t just the end of failure but the start of a different kind of failure, making it even more suffocating. It’s actually easier when there’s only one choice available.”

Was it the intention of the Middle Earth production team to make players think more? Leeha approached the vicinity of the Remlin Palace, grumbling to himself. The giant guards looked down at him with a proud stance, their chests puffed out.

“Thank you for your hard work. I am Ha Leeha, a musketeer of Fibiel and the lord of Gaza City.”

The giants’ brows twitched, but that was it. They showed no reaction to Ha Leeha.

“Ahem, I have an appointment with Karelin-nim. May I enter?”

“With Karelin-nim?”

The giant guards locked eyes. In that moment, Ha Leeha could sense something in their treatment, a burning discomfort.

“… With Karelin? It seems like I didn’t explain it properly. I am affiliated with Fibiel and am a friendly force of the Shazrashian Federation—”

“That’s why we are showing you this level of courtesy, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“What? This makes no sense… Or does it?”

It made sense.

Finally, Ha Leeha exhaled, raising an eyebrow.

Among the rewards received after clearing the first part of the linked quest, there was: 『Shazrashian Federation National Prestige decreases by 1,000』.”

“This crazy game won’t let people relax!”

The reason they detested Ha Leeha was all too clear.

The 『Dignity』 buff had the power to overwhelm those with a lower common reputation NPCs on the Lope continent. But it didn’t work on everyone. Especially if the target wasn’t affiliated with Fibiel, it was almost natural.

Ha Leeha sighed, once again checking him achievements window.

『Achievement: Medal of Honor – Fibiel(A+)』 Reward: 18 Skill Points, intimacy with Fibiel’s NPCs +30%, Continental Common Reputation +1,000, exceeding 3,000 contribution on Foreign countries and royalties(excluding Ezwen) will decrease intimacy by 10%.』

“Oh… That was also there.”

They were the guardians responsible for overseeing where the highest authority of a country resided. In other words, these Giants themselves were nothing less than Shazrashian ‘Personal Guards’ or something of that sort.


Therefore, their contributions to the Shazrashian Federation would easily exceed 3,000, and Ha Leeha had to add another -20% intimacy bonus effect on top of the basic -10% intimacy with them. That meant, currently, even the high-ranking members of Shazrashian had an intimacy of -30%, and with the Shazrashian having a negative contribution, the additional relationship penalty needed to be applied as well.

“Just roughly… even if I set it low, it’s around -35%, almost close to -40%.”

If Ha Leeha wasn’t a prominent figure of Fibiel… If the common reputation score of Lope Continent was not incredibly high, he wouldn’t have even received such treatment from the Giant Guards.

“Kkuuee. I get it, okay. Then please contact Karelin-nim. I really— huh, no, please contact him.”

While part of me wanted to snap back, “Could I hold you responsible for your rudeness if I were truly his guest?”, what would fighting with NPCs accomplish in the current situation?

It’s good to act tough, but there was a need to choose the right time and place. Above all, the person who was in a hurry was himself.

“Please wait a moment.”

The Giant Guard NPC picked up something with a blank expression. Then, after a moment, he sighed and said, “Karelin-nim will come out here. Please wait a moment.”

“You can’t even let me in? It’s like not trusting someone at all.”

“Consider it fortunate that I’m even letting you in.”

“Fine. Okay. I understand.”

It wasn’t a complete informal tone or complete disregard.

The Giant Guard spoke to Leeha in a manner that barely maintained the minimum formality, and Leeha had to suppress the rising anger and endure it. After a while, Karelin rushed out urgently and escorted Leeha.

“You’ve arrived, Ha Leeha-nim.”

He still had the innocent face of a gorilla, making it hard to determine whether it felt kind or ominous.

“Yes, I’m here. I came at Karelin-nim’s request, but goodness, I want to go back so badly.”

“Yes, yes?”

“No, let’s go.”

Leeha no longer wanted to get into a conflict with NPCs and the like.

There was no need to deliberately lower intimacy with the elite guards and the like.


“First time visiting the Remlin Palace, right? It wouldn’t be a bad idea to take a good look around this time. If Ha Leeha-nim cooperates well, I’ll make sure you’re satisfied with the sightseeing. Oh, by the way, the employee cafeteria has delicious food. There are many places in Fibiel known for good cooking, but the Giant race is naturally talented at cooking.”

Luckily, Karelin was a user, and he carefully handled Leeha levels, who seemed agitated for some reason.

Thoughts of the chef Miyoph, who was promoted to the manager of the Gril Candle Castle with his divine cooking and giants, were coming to mind, and Leeha levels were gradually feeling better.

The splendor of Redulin Palace was by no means inferior to the Royal Palace of Fibiel; if anything, the decorative aspect seemed even more prominent on the Shazeracian side.”It’s very magnificent.”

“Because the surroundings are humble.”

“What do you mean?”

“Shazrashian is all about coldness. Everywhere you go, it’s snowfields, icy lands, snowy mountains, icy plains… So it seems that the architecture has developed to be more splendid. Especially here, even more so.”

“Well, it’s where the king- no, the president resides.”

Leeha quickly corrected the word to president, but Karelin didn’t say anything.

Instead, he slightly nodded him head, as if acknowledging something.

They soon entered the reception room.

“Although it’s a bit tight for receiving guests, it seems like we’ll need to finish our discussion first before meeting the president.”

“Am I someone who needs to see the president? Hehe.”

Leeha hadn’t brought up their own agenda yet, but simply being offered the opportunity to meet the president like scratching an itch made them feel pleased.

Karelin nodded to Leeha and spoke.

“Of course. You are the only one who can communicate and negotiate with the Human Flesh Hunter. So, let me tell you our concerns first.”

“Yes, I can’t make a decision myself, I’ll have to convey it… But let’s hear it first.”

“Please persuade the Human Flesh Hunter to allow Shazrashian users and the NPCs to cross that area.”

Karelin finally revealed his own agenda to Leeha. To this, Leeha hummed, frowned with determination, and wrinkled their forehead.

‘It doesn’t seem like it’s going to be difficult, is it? This should be a great negotiation card.’

Of course, he was just pretending to ‘think’. Karelin’s intention?

Wasn’t it Leeha’s responsibility to know what the Giants would do as they passed through the ruins where the White Reaper’s Ghost resides anyway! Then their intentions are not important to him at all.

‘Instead of drafting a legal document guaranteeing the rights of minority ethnic groups to President of Shazrashian, if we just say ‘let’s move past that place’…’

It was over. Lowering his head as if thinking for a while, Leeha finally spoke with a smile.

“If that’s the case, the White Reaper, no, ‘Shimo’, wouldn’t have any reason to object.”

“Is that so? Great, then-”

“However…”

“However?”

“It would be nice to have a simple document that prohibits discrimination against minority ethnic groups under the jurisdiction of the Shazrashian Federation, um, what was it called… a rights charter, maybe? Nothing too complicated, just simple. Do you get the idea?”

Leeha shrugged his shoulders nonchalantly, discussing complicated matters as if they were nothing.

“Well, it doesn’t seem too difficult. Very well.”

Observing this, Karelin easily agreed with a nod.

Leeha felt pleased that his performance was well-received but kept his composure, knowing this was a negotiation and not a place to show weakness.

“I will report back to the President. Please wait for a moment.”

“Of course. I will be here waiting, so don’t worry.”

Leeha’s ability to quickly adapt and respond served as both an advantage and a disadvantage.

Kuuuum…

As Karelin closed the door and left the reception room, Leeha burst into laughter.

“Hahaha! That’s right! They’re falling for it! Middle Earth, you little troublemakers! Huh!? You were planning to trick me, right? Stirring up trouble with negative national publicity and negative intimacy – these bastards… if they try to play the negative card on me! I’ll just bring out a scarecrow~ That’s what I’m talking about!”

Leeha even punched the air, voicing his thoughts aloud.

He even had the thought that the Middle Earth production team or NPC might be listening. At least this time, he had successfully avoided the trap set by Middle Earth!

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 773

				
Arcane Sniper 773

“When that son of a gun Kaztor went crazy, I saw the face of President Shazrashian. He truly had a handsome – no, giant handsome face. His body looked amazing too. Ah! Was Karelin there at that time?”

Thinking back to the face of President Shazrashian that he had seen from a distance during the secret conference of the Vatican, he suddenly remembered Karelin’s face.

However, since all NPC Guard Giants he had seen up to this point had faces covered by helmets, it was not easy to determine. When it comes to Giants, one might think that they all have the same round bodies with great muscles.

“Also, mini’s side is a problem, and Rotzak… They were probably not paying much attention to Shazrashian figures during that time, as they were too distracted by Kaztor and the Kraven individuals.” he thought to himself.

“Oh, right, I need to tell Blaugrunn.”

Leeha: Are you busy? You knew I was coming but didn’t say anything.

Blaugrunn: You were told me to contact you. Going somewhere alone-

Leeha: Haha, that’s over. I met the White Reaper’s Ghost. It didn’t feel as intense as I expected. It was more sacred-

Blaugrunn: Really!? Leeha-nim! You should have called me back then!”

Blaugrunn complained while laughing awkwardly. Hearing his urgent tone, something about it made Leeha smile involuntarily.

Leeha: Right. When we were talking earlier, I should have also called Blaugrunn.

Blaugrunn: And you’re only bringing this up now! If you were going to call me back then!

Leeha: I was going to call, I was going to call. But, what if calling Blaugrunn makes the White Reaper angry and unleashes their wrath? I’m not sure if I can handle it.

Blaugrunn: Are you seriously thinking that I would fall for such a thing?

Leeha: You did last time.

With a light tone, Leeha’s teasing remark triggered a defiant response from Blaugrunn. Ignoring his words, Leeha burst into laughter.

“There’s a certain joy in teasing, after all.”

Judging by the fact that he hadn’t shot a cold stare or tried to scare off Leeha, it seemed there was no issue. Despite knowing this, Leeha wanted to tease Blaugrunn. While Leeha was getting carried away with his playful mood, Karelin diligently reported everything Leeha had said to the president.

“There is a human who subdued the Human Flesh Hunter, his name is Ha Leeha. His demands are as follows: a brief and concise report.”


It was a clean report that left nothing to be questioned, as expected of Leeha.

“Karelin Representative. No, investigator Karelin?”

“Yes, Your Highness.”

However, the voice of President Shazrashian of the Shazrashian Federation was far from friendly. Ranked 12th among users, Karelin quickly and succinctly responded without letting his guard down.

While leaning against the wooden table with both arms, the president stared at Karelin with raised eyebrows.

“That… thing you mentioned.”

“Yes, yes?”

Although Karelin briefly met the president’s gaze, he quickly averted his eyes upon noticing the twitching of the president’s eyelids.

“We are already hiring regardless of background. Just the fact that you are not from Krabavi is enough differentiator, isn’t it?”

“That, that’s- of course, yes.”

“While you were at it, understood the meaning of legally mandating to treat all ethnicities in the federation equally without discrimination? Do you understand what that means?”

“Uh, well, that means-”

Leeha and Karelin are players enjoying Middle Earth. Both of them are simply people carrying out their own quests.

“Interfering in internal affairs. At the same time, acknowledging that such a phrase did not exist until now in Shazrashian. Therefore, coming up with such a concept wasn’t an easy task.”

Karelin’s pupils dilated. The president continued speaking.

“Even if the King of Quiviel comes and asks, I can’t listen to such words. Let alone… a mere lord, a person in charge, coming and saying that? Ha, the one who subdued the Human Flesh Hunter comes and says that… So, whose intention do you think that is?”

“Probably the Human Flesh Hunter’-”

“It means the remnants of bad-blooded Paldrin. Understand?”

The president of Shazrashian stood up from his seat and walked towards Karelin.

Karelin possesses a much bulkier and larger stature than an average Giant. As a user who chose the Human race, he belongs to the category of users classified as ‘large races’ who are strong enough to use ground skills against Trolls in the game.


However, as the 12th-ranked wrestler, he couldn’t meet the eyes of the president of Shazrashian properly.

“Where are we, Karelin.”

“It’s Shazrashian.”

“We are different from other barbaric kingdoms. We are ahead in abolishing class distinctions, including all aspects of national operating systems and political methods… than those guys.”

“I know.”

“What do you think is the reason we can do that?”

Shazrashian has a presidential system. In other words, compared to other kingdoms with kings and classes, it means that a ‘democratic system’ is established.

Can both monarchy and republicanism coexist?

That is impossible.

As Karelin remained silent, the president of Shazrashian answered himself.

“The logic of power. We have a complete logic of power. Because the one who has power is justice, and in front of the one who has power, institutions like systems don’t matter at all.”

Shazrashian advocates for a republic. There are representatives and voting. However, it’s not all through democratic means.

It could rather be seen as an authoritarian republic.

Since they didn’t feel much difference between the way their kingdom operated compared to other countries, they didn’t overly self-aggrandize.

In some sense, it was more thorough than other countries operating as monarchies, in that it mimicked and mocked ordinary citizens, giving everyone their rights but blatantly ignoring them, making it no different than a nation governed by the most brutal logic of power.

“That, that’s correct.”

Karelin remembered. The incident that unfolded on the day when three battalions, including himself, and five guilds rushed out to face the President.

In other words, the President of Shazrashian is the strongest Giant in Shazrashian. A figure who boasts resilience to the extent of being unfazed even when Kaztor caused chaos in the Vatican, akin to the Federal Armed Forces’ top authority.

“If a Human Flesh Hunter has been subdued by someone, then surely there must be such talent in our Shazrashian as well.”

The President of Shazrashian turned around and looked out through the window. Then, he quietly mentioned the failure conditions of the quest.


“Did you say Ha Leeha? Convey this to that human. I have no intention of negotiating with a mere Human Flesh Hunter. Furthermore, legally and ritually detain Leeha. Also… mobilize all forces to subdue the area where the Human Flesh Hunter’ soul resides. There is no need to fulfill the demands of the weak.”

In front of the most powerful figure wielding military, authority, and wealth, carolin could no longer contain words of refusal.

“Understood.”

***

At that moment, a system notification window appeared before Leeha. It was an incredibly early time to be so surreal.

Leeha: You should have seen that scene, shouldn’t you? I used my Curve Shot, and the bullet just bent like a snake –

『I took action. That was the only way – Quest 2 failed.』

“Huh?”

Leeha, who had been boasting to Blaugrunn in excitement, fell silent. He blinked several times, finding it difficult to grasp the notification window before him.

‘… What’s going on? A sudden failure out of nowhere?’

Quest failed? All of a sudden?

It had only been 20 minutes since Karelin had left his room. Could it be a failure so abruptly when he had barely been gone for long, wondering if he had even met the President?

“What, what’s happening? I was supposed to be called soon and then talk with the President – wasn’t that the plan?”

Blaugrunn: So what happened? What’s going on?

Leeha: Blaugrunn-ssi! I’ll contact you in a bit, but more importantly…

Leeha’s senses began to sharpen. The relaxed figure that had been sprawled on the plush sofa until now was nowhere to be found. Something was wrong.

Leeha: Prepare for battle…

Blaugrunn: Yes? All of a sudden?

Leeha: What we need right now is troops.

Without even having a chance to grasp the situation, orders were given to Blaugrunn, followed by a call to Karelin.

Leeha: Karelin? What’s going on?

… Knowing right away, it must have been a quest.

“Of course!”

Did the president reject the request? No, more importantly… Shazrashian has a parliament, right?

“I thought Karelin was also a member! Why? Why on earth-”

Before the time when it could have been discussed in the parliament, the quest ended. There was no time or situation to explain everything, but Leeha clearly knew.

The failure condition of the quest is ‘rejection by the Shazrashian Federation government.’

“The words ‘rejection’ or ‘approval’ are clearly terms used when an issue is discussed in the parliament, right? So… is this implying that… the President could decide alone?”

“Something… seems different from what I know. No, is it saying that when the approval by the parliament triggers the President’s veto power, it ends!? Then, what’s the point of the parliament’s existence? I may not know much about the political system, but this is strange, isn’t it!?”

Feeling something was off was natural. This was Shazrashian – a republic ruled by the logic of power, a concept unheard of by Leeha.

“Apologies, but could you stay there for the time being?”

“What? Where? Is it where the White Reaper are?”

“… Please avoid that place if possible. We would appreciate it if you could stay in our Remlin palace. We will prepare a guest room for you and you can enjoy dinner for a couple of days. Would that be acceptable?”

Karelin’s voice was gentle and peaceful.

Yet, he couldn’t hide the underlying sadness in his tone. Hence, Leeha quickly understood the situation.

This situation must have progressed in a way Karelin didn’t intend. And for some reason, Karelin intends to ‘confine’ Leeha. Though he mentioned a guest room and dinner, if it had come to this extent?

“Damn it, this is not just a little trouble. It’s completely messed up.”

Leeha caught on.

They would keep his confined here and most likely rush into where the White Reaper were aimlessly. Until now, the White Reaper have never been attacked. But now? Leeha had a glimpse of what might happen.

“Damn it! And to top it off, Karelin saw that scene!”

Karelin must have seen how the White Reaper could be attacked. It might not be the same method Leeha used, but he would find another way to attack, like using magic or mobilizing people intermittently.

Above all, because he had defeated the White Reaper himself…

“The White Reaper will be different from before.”

“Shoo-ahh!”

In an instant, another hologram window appeared before Leeha. Karelin understood that Leeha not responding to his meant something. 『The White Reaper Quest has been initiated.』

『The Shazrashian Federation giants are the quest targets.』

『No chaotic value applied during Shazrashian Federation giants’ attacks.』

『No penalties applied between each other.』

『Meet the White Reaper within 1 hour.』

『Remaining time: 00:59:59.』

“The quest has been forcibly started! It’s definitely something different.”

This was not a reward for completing the quest. It was a failure penalty, meaning acceptance or rejection was not an option but would be forcibly imposed! “What the hell, what are the giants’ quest targets!? I can’t understand a single thing!”

Leeha immediately took out a modification scroll. And at that moment. 『Abnormal status: Mana barrier (enhanced) triggered.』

『Cannot leave the restricted area for 50 minutes.』

(Breaking the barrier is possible with higher-level ability than the caster) 『Abnormal status: Spatial confinement (enhanced) triggered.』

『All spatial movements within a range are restricted for 30 minutes.』

『Abnormal status: Communication interference (enhanced) triggered.』

『All group chats, including whispers, are prohibited for 30 minutes.』

This nonsensical exclamation left Leeha speechless except for one gasp. Should he have initiated Shazrashian national level operations from the beginning and proceeded with the quest? Or should he have captured Karelin or other Shazrashian representatives for 80 players? It wasn’t so easy to undo discrimination. Various thoughts raced through his mind, but the only thing that mattered now was one thing.

“I must survive.”

In the capital city of the Giant race, the primary species, where the supreme leader of the Giant race resided in the palace. He had to survive and escape. With no Soul Link skill and unable to call Bahamut, it was a dire situation. (To be continued…)

Fucking giant president.
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“Damn it!”

*Kwang-!*

Leeha kicked the door of the reception room and stepped outside. Already, at both ends of the corridor, nPC presidential guards were aiming their arrows towards him.

“There he is!”

“Target spotted! Protect the President!”

“Fire!”

“Damn it, do you think I’m an assassin! 『Force Barrier』!”

*Whoosh-boom!*

As soon as the giants released their bows, Leeha activated a skill attached to his ring. However, he wouldn’t be able to withstand their powerful arrows for long.

“Remember this well! You guys started this first!”

*Kaka-ka-ka-ka-ka!*

Seeing the force barrier weakening, Leeha adopted a defensive stance and raised his voice.

『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”

“Block, b-block-”

Not even a thousand meters away, it was impossible to react after the multi-warhead shot was activated.

*Ka-clang!*

The 80 guards of the Remlin Palace, who were in the midst of aiming their bows or charging with swords, turned into a battlefield.

“What in the world—”

“Q-quick, all the guards on the opposite side…”


After surrounding Leeha from both sides and attempting to arrest him, the giants stood there with bewildered expressions. They couldn’t fathom what had just happened.

“Freeze, freeze his mana! Prevent him from casting spells—”

*Taaaaang!*

Leeha immediately turned around and pulled the trigger.

“Captain!”

Hearing the cry of one of the giants, Leeha ran towards the corpses swept away by the Multi-Warhead Shot. Despite using 『Partner: Attendance』, it didn’t work in the reinforced spatial barrier.

“Blaugrunn, do you copy?”

-Ca-can’t hear properly, what’s—

“Prepare for battle! Secure the area! Respond if you hear me, prepare for battle! Secure the area!”

-U-understood-……-preparing-

‘Damn it, even the communication interference is enhanced. But if he understood…’ L

Leeha and Blaugrunn communicated with minimal keywords, yet Leeha didn’t doubt that his ‘Partner’ understood. Blaugrunn would immediately prepare to open a space through mana synchronization.

“There he is!”

“Go up!”

“Damn it.”–!

At the end of the hallway, the plan to go down the stairs had to be abandoned. The giants rushing towards him made it difficult to confront them immediately, so he swiftly pulled out a flamethrower and aimed it downwards, unleashing flames in that direction.

“Kka-a-a-ah!”

“Fire, it’s fire!”

However, the flamethrower’s effectiveness was short-lived.

『Arctic Shield』!”


『Snowstorm Energy』!”

Zzt zzt zzt zzt -!

By the time the giants in the front were engulfed in flames and turned into light, the ones in the rear were already ascending the stairs with frost attribute shields.

Continuing the futile attacks was pointless. He retracted the flamethrower into his bag and ran towards the stairs.

“Karelin! What do you think you’re doing! As a member of Fibiel, can we interpret this as a declaration of war against my country?!”

Ascending the massive spiral staircase, he exchanged words with Karelin. Amidst this, he didn’t forget to hang his rifle over the railing and fire downwards.

The giants moved unusually fast for their size.

Above all, reducing the distance with their huge stature and stride felt akin to some form of “movement speed correction due to high agility.”

-… Interference in internal affairs.

-What?

The reason why his actions had to momentarily halt was of course due to Karelin’s response.

“Ha Leeha, you have interfered in the internal affairs of the Shazrashian. The President of our country considers it an act of impurity and has decided to arrest you and formally protest to Fibiel.”

“This is insane. They’ve got it all wrong. You can’t be serious about this…”

“Well, it’s a disappointment to meet you under these circumstances. However, there’s no choice.”

“If that’s what Shazrashian wants – Tuuaaah–_—–!”

“Let’s give it a try.”

With determination fueled by anger, he climbed the stairs. Gazing at the seemingly endless corridor and countless rooms, he pondered, “Should I hide inside?”

If he could buy enough time to synchronize and strengthen the space barrier with Blaugrunn’s mana, he could manage.

Staying put for thirty minutes here wasn’t an option.

During this short game of cat and mouse, perhaps all he needed to do was conceal himself out of sight.


“Damn it, if only I could use camouflage! Without hesitation, I would have just gone into any room and hidden myself. However, the cooldown for camouflage is 12 hours, and it hasn’t been that long since I used it against the White Reaper.

“Hiding without camouflage is also a gamble. There could be alarm magic at the White Reaper’s residence. It’s naive to think that there wouldn’t be any here in the presidential palace.”

There is also a possibility of being detected through wide-range detection or mana detection skills. Therefore, being cornered in one place was something that should be avoided.

“The only remaining option is…”

He looked up.

“Go up, go up!”

“Corner them on the rooftop! There’s no escape route there!”

“Well, there’s no other choice.”

He forced a smile and put his hand into his bag.

In an instant, a small flame was burning in the hand that went in and out.

“Ah.”

*Click*

He immediately started climbing the stairs.

“Let’s go…”

“What’s this?”

“I’ll hold them off, so all of you go up!”

The fuse of the bomb rolling down the stairs was rapidly burning. A giant Royal Guard threw himself to envelop the bomb.

“Oh… impressive. Truly worthy of being the Giant of Comradeship.”

He briefly admired the scene below but had to turn his head immediately.

With the explosion sound, he didn’t want to see the massive collapsing body receiving all the explosive energy in his body.

“It’s visible!”

How many floors had he climbed?

He suddenly thought that the rooftop might be blocked like in the Bransylvania Castle, but fortunately, it wasn’t the case.

As he opened the door at the top where there were no more stairs, he was greeted by the complete darkness of the evening, welcoming even the setting sun.

Countless giants buried in the darkness were a bonus. Holding bows or casting spells, the giants surrounding the Lelumlin Palace were staring down at him.

“Give up, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Karelin… Do you really want to address me as ‘Ha Leeha-nim’ even in this situation?”

Among them was Karelin as well.

He nodded as if he had no complaints about what Leeha heard from him. Throwing off his robe, the 12th-ranked wrestler who revealed his sturdy physique was transported to the rooftop of Remlin Palace by the mage users.

Leeha: Blaugrunn! Report on the readiness status! Report on the readiness status!

Blaugrunn: Archi-e-e… echoing… intermittent… struggling… exertion… Leeha: Use summoning immediately as soon as ready! As soon as ready, use summoning!

Blaugrunn: Don’t worry too much~~.

Leeha: Don’t worry? Blaugrunn should be the one worrying about me! Ugh! I can’t back down. Countless giants are surrounding me up above. And on the rooftop over there? Step by step, Karelin was approaching from the other side. Leeha scanned the surroundings.

‘The spatial barrier covers the entire Remlin Palace. You can move within the Remlin Palace.’ What would be the quickest way? If only there were items created for moments like this. Leeha thought of a few types of grenades to use in this situation.

‘I need smoke or flash grenades. I should ask for those to be made once I go back.’ Amidst this, thoughts and actions were separate. Leeha, now wearing Black Vest, aimed at Karelin.

Leeha: If you come any closer, I won’t show mercy, Karelin.

Karelin: … What? Show mercy?

Leeha: Yes, things got messed up with Phietari, well, who knows what will happen later, but I didn’t want to stain my face with this kind of trouble by killing you. But if you take another step…

Karelin: I can’t bear it either.

Leeha shrugged. Karelin’s innocent expression began to distort gradually. Around that time, Karelin couldn’t be unaware of the meaning implied in ‘show mercy.’ Leeha considered himself ‘superior’ to Karelin, and the change that could be anticipated in how Karelin interpreted those words had begun.

‘Is his body getting bigger?’

Since all the giants surrounding the Remlin Palace were shining light on Leeha, Karelin only appeared as a backlight silhouette to Leeha. Therefore, it was difficult to tell for sure. However, even just from that silhouette, Leeha felt his muscles growing and strengthening simultaneously. Click! Leeha adjusted his posture, pulling back on the bowstring.

“I told you to stop.”

“And if I don’t? What are you going to do?”

Only the silhouette of his tense head muscles remaining caught Leeha’s eye. Was it an angry expression? Nevertheless, Leeha relaxed amidst it all.

“The reverse light is such a relief. Facing a furious gorilla expression, oh, it would be terrifying. The term ‘King Kong’ will definitely come up.

Is it because Karelin took the lead in bringing the situation to this point?

It’s not just that simple reason. In fact, giants from other nearby professions were also stealthily making their way to the rooftop of the castle. So, there is only one reason why Karelin took the lead.

‘At least among these, I am the strongest, that’s it.’

Thus, Karelin poured out his power. If he can bring down that guy, the atmosphere will change momentarily. In the meantime, he can summon the terror spirit to freeze everyone, blow them all up with explosives and flamethrowers.

“Whew~.”

It took less than a second to finalize all these plans in his mind. And then? Execution.

Without a word or movement, he pulled the trigger. The gunshot startled everyone around. Only one person wasn’t surprised.

Huh…What’s this?

That one person wasn’t Leeha.

“Dodged it?”

The one person who wasn’t surprised was Karelin. The wrestler, crouching as if glued to the floor, laughed. His teeth reflected the light, making it visible to Leeha too.

“I see.”

“Are you insane, this is unbelievable-”

No target that he had aimed properly at had ever avoided being shot. Some bullets were blocked by Bluebeard, some were dodged at a considerable distance with confusing movements. But this, this was extremely… in the midst of confusion, Leeha did not stop his attack.

However, on the rooftop of Remlin Palace, there was only a bright spark on the ground. Karelin, who had been there just a moment ago, had somehow stood up and evaded to the side.

“Next time, aim better.”

“Ah! The price of stupidity-”

Leeha stumbled back as he pulled the trigger.

What he saw was not a bullet. It was the minute movement of the finger pulling the trigger. To confess that he dodged because he saw that! “- It’s death! 『Curve Shot』!”

Leeha adjusted the rifle to the right with a snap.

He dodged by looking at the finger. Since the direction of the bullet is fixed the moment the trigger is pulled, if you can see that moment of pulling it, moving the body is not something difficult for at least the 12th ranked wrestler.

Then, how would you avoid a curve shot that even twists such thinking upside down?

Eeekk───! The bullet quickly curved from right to left from Leeha’s perspective, piercing Karelin’s left shoulder and heading towards his heart. Leeha knew it. Even with common sense, facing opponents like the users or monsters of Middle Earth he had encountered so far, there was no way to dodge this attack from such a short distance.

(To be continued in the next…)
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Tsuu-!

The sound of something rapidly spinning was heard. Leeha briefly doubted his own eyes and ears. Two fingers held out in front of his left shoulder by Karelin!

What in the world is that?

Leeha’s question was quickly answered when Karelin himself explained what was rapidly spinning between his fingers.

“Of course, even bullets… can be seen.”

Karelin threw what he was holding in his hand onto the ground.

With a clatter, the bullet casing rolled on the floor.

Leeha couldn’t say anything. Karelin had caught the bullet.

As Leeha alternated his gaze between Karelin and the bullet casing on the floor with wide eyes.

“Now it’s my turn.”

His weapon disappeared.

The next moment, Leeha found himself looking at the floor.

Ah-!

The moment he realized his limbs were completely bound, it meant that Leeha’s body had been completely captured by Karelin.

“A defense item, huh!”

“I… Recommended 『Combat Mode』…”

He couldn’t breathe. He couldn’t speak. Unless the command to switch to combat mode was given, Jellypong only blocked Leeha’s 20 damage reduction.

“How futile. But it’s better than being imprisoned.”

Karelin tightened his grip on Leeha’s body and neck. Leeha felt his vision blurring.


Is this what it feels like to be caught in Toon’s grasp? Leeha had never been caught before, but he thought it would be worse than this. It wasn’t just a simple grappling but a wrestler’s technique that included skill, completely binding his body.

Unable to escape, unable to even resist, Leeha could only wait for death with his vision growing hazy. In that situation, a flicker of violet light appeared.

“Inhumane.”

Karelin collapsed on the floor of the Remlin Palace. His ‘target’ vanished, as he had been supporting it.

“What?!”

“He’s gone! Leeha has disappeared!”

“The spatial constraints – are they still in place!?”

The giants roared, scanning their surroundings. Karelin furrowed his brows, stood up, and brushed off the dust on his body. His muscles began to relax once again, and his angry expression transformed into the innocent face of a gorilla.

“Phew…

“Lightning is shining” he said.

“It must be the dragon I’ve only heard rumors about.”

He looked around and instructed the giants, “Divide into groups and search the surrounding areas! Send for Hamina Castle immediately. Lock the gates of the Human Flesh Hunter’s residence with not only physical locks but also mana, and then withdraw from there!”

Understood!

Although he speculated that Leeha had disappeared, he did not relax his vigilance. He focused on the possibility that he might have fallen somewhere nearby, as well as the chance that he had truly escaped from the Shazrashian capital.

“It hurts even when caught. It seems to be at the level of a proper attack.”

He checked his fingers that had caught the bullets and his character’s health at 17 on the rooftop of Remlin Palace, where all the giants had fallen.

“Cough, cough, cough! Haah, haah.”

“Leeha! Are you okay?! 『Recovery』, 『Great Heal』!”

Blaugrunn immediately used recovery magic on Leeha.

Leeha gestured that he was fine and stood up, but his expression was far from bright.


“My vision didn’t turn red. It’s not like I was hurt. That was- that was a real 『technique』. It was a situation I had never even thought of before.”

Not even when jumping into the sea towards the Dragon Palace did he experience ‘breathing difficulties.’

But being restrained in his neck, arms, and legs simultaneously by such a technique! ‘If my breathing had stopped there, what would have happened?”

If your neck bone is broken, it’s instant death.

If your breathing stops? Would it result in just a fainting effect?

He thought back to the state Prea was in when he faced the terror spirit. He couldn’t be sure, but he felt he might end up in a similar state.

“Let’s go, quickly.”

“Where to? Where?”

“The cabin of the White Reaper. The giants will block that place. We need to meet the White Reaper within one hour.”

『Remaining time: 00:38:41』

“Alright, this should be fine. Blaugrunn-ssi! Do you have the coordinates stored from before?”

“Of course-”

Tack-…

Leeha was rummaging through the bag, retrieving a magazine from the Black Bass.

“Ha, Leeha, are you okay?”

“Uh? What’s wrong, why is my hand like this?”

It was a mistake Leeha had never made before. Dropping the magazine while trying to retrieve it?

As he reached out to pick up the fallen magazine, he finally realized. Grappling techniques, takedown techniques. The terror of a wrestler.

“Blocking the blood flow for a long time.”

Preventing the muscles from moving properly. His trembling arms and hands were proof of that.


Leeha clenched and unclenched his fist, trying to regain control of his body. He knew it was a temporary phenomenon. After receiving a sudden powerful blow in the military, such occurrences often happened.

“Incredible.”

“What?”

“That gorilla… he’s amazing.”

As Leeha slowly muttered a few words, Leeha felt a chill run down his spine.

“I let my guard down. Maybe I underestimated him since he’s not Top 10… I thought being 12th in the rankings wasn’t a big deal.”

Perhaps because he had easily “hunted” Wood Elves around the 15th rank before. But the situation was completely different now, and Leeha had overlooked that fact.

“We didn’t know where we were, and we were faced with the Wood Elves in a chaotic large-scale battle, unlike the Wood Elves who have experienced my attacks already, especially because that was my home ground.”

He must have used some skill. There was a possibility that he used something different from Chiyou’s predictions.

Leeha couldn’t know the specifics of the grueling training methods of wrestlers or the various exercises that trained creatures like monsters in detail, but it wasn’t just about physique.

When the extreme physique, the internal conditions such as stamina adjustment, skills, and the combat environment perfectly aligned, that’s when things happened.

“This won’t be easy.”

Leeha picked up the fallen magazine from the ground and inserted it into the black Bess.

Clang, clunk—!

As rough as the clashing magazine, Leeha’s expression was just as rough.

“Right.”

“We don’t need to call for other humans, right?”

“Yeah, it’s not necessary.”

Leeha nodded. Blaugrunn immediately used spatial teleportation. As they teleported to the ruins where the White Reaper’s Ghost resided, the giants there raised their weapons.

“Ha Leeha!”

“Ah, it’s not sealed yet! Time-”

“Everyone except for the one in charge of the mana seal, get out! We have to stop Ha Leeha!”

Giants emerged from not only near the iron gate but also from the surrounding hills. As soon as they saw Leeha, they started shooting arrows.

*Boooom!*

The defensive shield set up by the ‘Ha Leeha Legion’ that wrapped around Leeha’s head was impenetrable to ordinary arrow attacks.

*Ting, tititang, ting, ting-!*

Blaugrunn’s shield were invincible to regular arrow attacks as if Leeha was constantly surrounded by dragon scales. And if Leeha could perfectly protect his head and neck?

“Wow, this performance is pretty good.”

What about the new ‘cloth’ that Leeha was wearing?

Any decent long-distance profession would find it impossible to unravel the textile structure of the clothes Leeha wore.

“Attack”

“Not working-”

“Jellypong, 『Combat mode: Agility』. Blaugrunn, kill them all.”

Leeha simply walked forward. The Jellypong wrapping around Leeha’s head took the left, while Blaugrunn took the right.

In Leeha’s hand was a small dagger. The giants with spears leaped towards Leeha, but these ones, far lower in skill than the ‘Guardian Giant’, couldn’t match Leeha’s movements.

“Kakyak!”

“Ah!”

Just turning into light by the touch of Toon’s claw.

It took less than a minute to tidy up the 25 giants near the iron gate.

“Blaugrunn, can you open it?”

“Yes. What’s the point of calling this a mana seal, seriously.”

Compared to Blaugrunn’s height, how many times could it be. Leeha gave up guessing in front of the massive iron gate and Blaugrunn simply lifted his finger and pushed it.

*Squeak……*

The abnormal combination of the soft opening of the styrofoam-like iron gate and the rough ungreased hinge’s squeak.

With a strange smile on his face, Leeha walked in just like that. There was no need for Leeha to be impatient once he arrived here.

“They won’t come right away. It will take a considerable amount of time to make thorough preparations. I don’t know exactly how thoroughly prepared we need to be…”

『When they move as fast as they can, they won’t be able to rest during the night. They are not afraid of sniper bullets in the city.』

“In the worst case, we gather troops in groups of ten or a week until we overwhelm them with numbers. In that case, even Leeha might not be able to endure it.”

The tension couldn’t be hidden, but Leeha wasn’t afraid.

“Huuh… Did the quest fail, so you’re getting scolded?”

“Scolded? By whom?”

Because he was here. In response to Blaugrunn’s question, Leeha answered with a smile.

“The White Reaper.”

… Is that so.

“Yes. Nations like Past Paldrin and Krabavi no longer exist. The only one left is the federation that merged them, Shazrashian. I proposed to the highest authority of Shazrashian, but…”

『The giant guys haven’t changed at all. Whether back then or now, the behavior of trying to crush everything with power remains the same.』

The White Reaper didn’t flinch. He didn’t change his posture or anything special. The middle-aged ghost simply listened to Leeha’s words quietly, showing a subdued rage.

“Then, what happened to Paldrin?”

“I’m not exactly sure, but… They are probably living somewhere in the former Paldrin region.”

“Have you visited my house before?”

“What? Oh, yes.”

Leeha remembered. The area where the White Reaper resided was exactly the jurisdiction of the former Paldrin nation.

From the main city with the warp gate to a few small villages that Leeha passed through, were there any of the NPCs he met?

“They were all… giants. Every NPC was a giant.”

Could there be any humanoids if he searched? But at least the conspicuous NPCs were all giants. The White Reaper was silent for a while. Blaugrunn, full of curiosity, wanted to say something to him, but Leeha was so keen that he couldn’t say anything.

“He wants the resources beyond this land… Interesting.”

“If your words are true… They are coming here, aren’t they?”

“Yes, probably… No, they will definitely come. They are also aiming for this place.”

“The quest target of the giants affiliated with the Shazrashian Federation.”

“When attacking giants affiliated with the Shazrashian Federation, the chaotic value does not apply. There is 0 penalty between each other.”

Leeha asked Jin Gonggong through whisper whether there was a quest for him to attack Leeha, or any strange notification window.

“There wasn’t. Fortunately. It seems to be only for giants affiliated with the Shazrashian nation.”

So Leeha became even more curious. How would the quest be given to giants affiliated with Shazrashian? What would be the conditions for success and failure, rewards and penalties?

If Leeha knew the structure of the 『Enemy』s quest, it would be easier to unravel it, but it was regrettable for him that he didn’t have any close friends among Shazrashian-affiliated users.

“I can’t ask Igor. While Leeha was joking to ease the tension, the White Reaper began to move slowly.

(To be continued…)
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『I want to show the descendants of Krabavi once again the majesty of the Paldrin with your help.』

“I see.”

『By lending me your power.』

“What? What do you mean?”

The White Reaper placed a hand on Leeha’s shoulder. In that strange moment, feeling like Jellypong had landed on his shoulder, a holographic window appeared before his eyes.

『Resurrected White Reaper』

Explanation:

“I can no longer exert all my power. Ever since being hit by your bullet, I have felt my strength waning… I wish to call my compatriots here, but they say you have never seen my compatriots. I’m sorry. However, I have known you since the moment we met. Just like me, I know what path you will walk in the future.”

Before disappearing from the surface, Shimo wants to fight alongside you.

Let’s safeguard this place until the Shazrashian Federation’s declaration of surrender and the creation of the rights agreement that Shimo desired are completed.

Objective: Guarding the occupied territory

Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: If five or more Giants reach the northern exit of the occupied territory –

Penalty for Failure: ?

Since the quest with a failure penalty had been forcibly imposed, rejection was not an option.

“The White Reaper is disappearing? Damn, it seems weakening was inevitable.”

Leeha quickly read through the quest. It was a very simple quest. The content was to just guard this place until they are exhausted and leave. The failure penalty was simple. Above all, the fact that ‘death’ was not mentioned as a failure consequence felt new to Leeha.

The moment Leeha dies, the Giants will reach the northern exit in numbers exceeding 500, not just five. In other words, ‘death’ was so natural in this context that it didn’t need to be explicitly mentioned as a failure penalty.

“Um, you… lending me your power… that’s… what does it mean?”


『You lend me your strength. I will give you a name in return.』

“A name…then?”

Leeha looked up at the White Reaper. Despite the slight difference in height, his eye level while floating in mid-air was slightly higher than Leeha’s. The White Reaper also met Leeha’s gaze.

“For those who only understand the logic of power, let that name become a symbol of terror ingrained in their minds.”

Leeha didn’t need to nod his head in agreement. It wasn’t simply because this was a quest imposed on him. It was because Leeha sensed that the words he had never desired to hear until now would come out of the mouth of the White Reaper.

『Speak the name of the White Reaper.』

“Ah…”

At that moment, Leeha’s heart began to beat rapidly. The quest ‘Resurrected White Reaper.’ Leeha thought this quest meant the resurrection of Shimo’s soul. It was only natural for him to think that way, especially after seeing the effects of the Easter Egg item.

However, ‘Resurrected White Reaper’ did not mean that. Resurrected White Reaper meant it was Leeha himself who followed in the footsteps of the White Reaper and was thus 『White Plague Shimo』 is said to have been resurrected!

Leeha closed his eyes quietly. Finally, holding the key to the second job advancement that had just been unlocked, and looking at the unexpected connection point of the quest, he clenched Black Bass tightly in his hand. Just by observing that gesture, the White Reaper nodded in approval. In expressing his determination and resolve, that alone was enough.

Leeha: How is it?

Jin Gonggong: Well, are you serious? But seriously, what on earth did you do-

Leeha: huh. I’ll tell you later. Don’t tell Kijung. It’s a secret from others too, okay?!

Jin Gonggong: Are you really okay by yourself, Leeha? This is not a joke, you know.

Leeha: What can I do anyway. Leeha listened to Jin Gonggong’s whisper and glanced at the quest window once again. Every time he saw the expression ‘Resurrected White Reaper’, it felt like electricity was running through his body, but in reality, it was not just a feeling of joy.

“There’s no deadline. An indefinite wait. We have to wait for their surrender declaration, not knowing when they will come out.”

Is there anything as torturous as having no deadline? But perhaps that is the essence of war. The fear of not knowing when it will end, unable to leave one’s position. Leeha quietly bit his lip.

“No, but why suddenly am I feeling so heated up? How did Chiyou, Igor, and Faust complete their second advancements so quickly?”

Did they go through such hardships? It seemed unlikely. Chiyou had been constantly attacked by Bathory and turned into a vampire, and Igor and Faust also completed their second advancements in just a few days without any special time to spare and crossed over to the Old Continent.

“Due to the demonic power…”


Why did Bluebeard do what he did? Leeha chuckled.

“It won’t always be just good unconditionally. The game Middle Earth never works that way.”

If you were to suddenly increase your power within a short time?

There would be a steep penalty condition that could lead to losing it. Although Leeha couldn’t know for sure, it was the same when Faust empowered Bluebeard, led the chimeras around, and destroyed Gaza City in the past.

After being subjugated by Rankers, Faust suffered a tremendous penalty, not to mention massive losses in public reputation and fame. There were hindrances to experience points acquisition related to other growth and restrictions on item wearing, so Leeha’s speculation wasn’t entirely wrong.

“Even in martial arts novels, it’s the same. The growth of the orthodox faction is slow but steady, while the evil faction or the demonic sect sees a rapid growth with an equally severe backlash. Don’t envy them. I’m doing just fine.”

Leeha comforted himself. In other words, he was anticipating that this quest might be challenging enough to warrant such thoughts.

Jin Gonggong: Wow, someone asked me to join their party frantically. They are asking me why I am not doing it when it’s just a free quest? They’re getting mad at me.

Leeha: … I hope you didn’t join the party, did you?

Jin Gonggong: N, no way! Anyway, there are rooms attached all over Shazrashian, and… Users are flocking in massively. The Knights are also being mobilized. I guess it’s okay to inform Shin Nara-nim separately, right? In this situation, it might be advisable for the Fibiel’s Royal Family to make a complaint. Leeha-nim is a prominent figure in Fibiel.

Leeha could see the worried expression on Jin Gonggong, who cared for him.

Since their first meeting, Leeha had thought of Jin Gonggong as someone with a strangely warm heart.

Leeha: Don’t say anything. She’s busy with other matters. Also, there’s no need for an official complaint to Shazrashian, and there’s no need for Fibiel to take the lead.

Jin Gonggong: What?

Karelin used the term ‘interference in succession’. But would Shazrashian officially complain to Fibiel for that reason?

Leeha: That’s a threat. It’s like saying they will abandon the negotiation proposal that I made. Even if there is a complaint, it will have to be made only after securing me. Simply making a complaint now would be futile and likely to provoke a backlash.

If Leeha didn’t behave like that, and if he just accepted the shelter of Fibiel’s homeland, that would be the end of it.

“Ch, at this point, they shouldn’t be stupid enough to make enemies.”

Jin Gonggong: Oh right, I contacted Bantal and the Daoist Brothers.

Leeha: Oh! What did they say?


Leeha listened attentively. However, the news he brought wasn’t very good.

Jin Gonggong: It seems… interesting. They told me to look forward to it. They already knew that Leeha-nim was involved.

Leeha: … Tsk, I knew they’d say that. This is not related to the main story line.

For Shazrashian users, it’s almost like an event, so naturally, they have to speak in that manner. Leeha didn’t entirely fail to understand their perspective.

“I probably would’ve done the same. But from my point of view, it’s really frustrating! Plus, this is my second job change! Can you ask them to go easier on me?”

Leeha lowered his head.

What the Resurrected White Reaper wanted was to turn Leeha’s name into a symbol of fear. Even then, such actions wouldn’t really fit the “concept”.

Jin Gonggong: So, this quest—『Winter Resource War』—is to conquer something within 100 days? What’s the big deal about occupying it within 100 days?

Leeha asked, puzzled.

Leeha: What? What did you say about 100 days? 100 days! Is it certain? Did you say 100 days?

Jin Gonggong: Yes. The quest name is 『Winter Resource War』. Seize a location within 100 days, most likely.

Finally, Jin Gonggong’s intelligence shed some light.

“Yes! That’s right!” Leeha involuntarily clenched his fist. Blaugrunn, who was next to him, looked surprised and asked, “Why are you acting that way?”

“Haha, they say you have to understand that giant users are troublesome. Or maybe it’s because they have that much confidence?”

Is it because his heart felt lighter?

Bantal confessed to Jin Gonggong about the quest, and it truly became “intelligence” passed on to Leeha.

“Shimo-nim, the enemies have named this battle 『Winter Resource War』 and they were ordered to occupy this place within 100 days.”

『Indeed… Is this an extension of the 『Winter War』?』

“Haha, that seems to be the case.”

Leeha smiled back at Shimo. In the real world, the Winter War was where Shimo made a name for himself.

“Winter War in Middle Earth too, huh? Haha, this is interesting.”

Now, it was the Winter Resource War, where they had to fend off Shadrazian giants aiming for resources beyond this land.

“100 days, huh. No log-out rotation. Just staring for about 20 days’ worth of reality.”

Would even closing his eyes briefly be possible in Middle Earth?

Extreme fatigue would engulf their entire body, pushing both their physical and mental limits to the extreme. Therefore, Leeha wondered.

“This should be enough.”

He was convinced that the confirmation of the 2nd class advancement would be concluded with this quest.

Around that time, Leeha became curious about others.

“What are they doing?”

Leeha opened the teleport window of the Three Musketeers. Surprisingly, the positions of the two individuals had not changed at all.

“I understand what you’re saying, kid. But do you think that guy will back off just because I offer money?”

“Showing exemplary behavior as a sheriff is the best way.”

“Haha, out of all the conversations we’ve had in the past few days, that was the funniest joke.”

Earp adjusted his hat and turned his body.

Kidd couldn’t contain his frustration. He had already completed several quests. Although he could sense that the quests were nearing their conclusion, he was completely stuck at this point.

“Bringing peace to 『Deadwood』 is my job. I thought it was the only way to advance to Desperado, but…?”

The way to bring peace to Deadwood was to reconcile Sheriff Earp and Wild Bill. However, it was not easy.

Over the past few days, Kidd had completed numerous quests to build rapport with the two NPCs, how much time had he spent to gain their intimacy? He had tasks such as handling the gang near Sheriff Earp and collecting gambling debts on behalf of Wild Bill.

However, no matter which task he chose, it was impossible to resolve it without 『force』. Kidd was confident in his abilities and approached all tasks with determination, but every moment was unexpectedly difficult.

“The gang members in this small town were more challenging to deal with than the monsters on the new continent. Probably because they were “event monsters.”

In fact, when Kidd asked passing users about the gang he mentioned, none of them had seen it. In other words, unless they were quest holders, there was no chance of encountering the said monsters.

After raising the intimacy levels on both sides, he was finally on the verge of reconciling the two parties and bringing about peace.

“I like you. But I know that you also get along with Wild Bill Hickok. Do you know what that means?”

“… He definitely has a habit of being careless. However, the responsibility lies with the sheriff as well-”

“Responsibility? Me? To me? Because he couldn’t catch the con artist in the act, it’s my defeat. Do I have to pay money as the price of defeat? No, kid, that’s not it. He just wants to disrupt the peace of this town under the pretext of gambling. He just wants to kill me. If not, he should come and bow down himself.”

It was always like this. No persuasion worked. Even if Kidd went to the ‘opposite side’ as Sheriff Earp mentioned, it wouldn’t work.
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“Hahaha! He wants me to bow my head and apologize? And he’ll give me money for that? You must be crazy, absolutely crazy. You, I thought you were pretty capable at what you do, but turns out you don’t know a thing about manners on this side of the tracks.”

“Still, with a bit of patience, you can gain a lot.”

“No, that’s not patience, greenhorn. That’s begging. It’s not about spreading rumors that I got paid by Sheriff Wyatt Earp of Deadwood, it’s about proclaiming that Wild Bill Hickok dug into Sheriff Earp’s rectum! Do you understand what I’m getting at!?”

Dong!

Wild Bill slammed the table. The beer glass shattered as it hit the floor, but neither of the two paid it any mind.

“Get lost! Looks like things are going south.”

Kidd’s body began to tremble. Nevertheless, he held back, walking out of the tavern.

“How much longer do I have to endure…?”

He had put up with a lot. Being called a greenhorn by Wild Bill, being called kid by Sheriff Earp, he had endured it all. After all, his nickname was Kidd, so he felt he had no room to object. But being called names aside, enduring such treatment was just too much to bear.

He wondered what he could do for the peace of the town. Description: Make Deadwood a peaceful place. Reward: ? Condition for Failure: If either Wild Bill or Sheriff Earp dies. Penalty for Failure: ?

It was the twelfth consecutive quest. Now, Kidd looked at the quest window again, finding everything obscured compared to the substantial rewards and penalties he had received before. Kidd instinctively knew this was the final linked quest. The abstract nature of the quest made him think even more so. But now, he felt it was his limit. Requests from Lark or Shin Nara seemed so distant now, overshadowed by the sole purpose of his secondary job advancement. But what kind of treatment was this?

“Just because it’s Sheriff Earp or Wild Bill, doesn’t mean they always do good deeds or cause trouble… Whatever incident occurs, both of them bear responsibility. Ultimately, both of them are to blame for causing trouble….”

How could he bring about peace?

“Was it like this from the beginning? Law’s outlaw, does that mean… Desperado meant that?”

Kidd had to prepare himself while looking at the quest window. What he was thinking now would be an enormous risk. However, with that gamble, he felt a growing certainty that he would achieve the desired outcome.

‘If no words get through, no threats work, and no tricks succeed… What could be the way to bring peace to the town? If the two always stir up trouble?’

Sheriff Earp and Wild Bill are at each other’s throats. Refusing to back down from each other, they were in an absurd deadlock. Due to their uneven strength, the stalemate seemed inevitable to drag on. How to make them shut up?

“Suppressing the two of them… that was the solution.”

What was needed was a being stronger than both, an absolute presence. Kidd recalled the ridiculous trap he saw on the day he first arrived at Deadwood—the trap of the two. However, he had to win.


“I am not the same as I was back then.”

He had to trust his quickened hand movements achieved through clearing numerous linked quests. He must do it. A three-way showdown. But one of them must not die. There was only one thing he should aim for—the guns they chose. It wasn’t even a fair 1:1 showdown. After confirming that both had drawn their guns, he had to fire bullets towards their guns, making them drop the firearms from their hands. The difficulty would surpass that of a typical duel by many magnitudes.

“Though I am not an NPC… I will not evade it.”

Kidd remembered an old spaghetti Western movie that bore a striking resemblance to the quest’s title. Middle Earth had been hinting at it from the start with its title.

“Hmm? Still, practice… hehe.”

While practicing drawing 『Crimson Geckos』 from his holster, Kidd chuckled. The problem had not arisen yet. Only after repeated practices until just before the problem emerged, he would take on the challenge.

“Huuueeergh!”

Veins popped on Luger’s neck as if he was lifting the earth. Though his face was turning crimson, his body did not move as desired.

“You darn, cursed dwarf inspiration tank!”

Grrr… Giiii… Eek- Anyone watching would mistake him for lifting the world. The 『Cobalt Blue Python』 in his hands no longer resembled its past form. However, the skill acquired through the Three Musketeers’ quest or the legacy qualification of 『Piercing』 granted by the “Legendary Blacksmith Bottleneck” was in a different dimension.

“The form itself… If it’s made like this-!”

Even in its original state, Luger’s weapon was the most prominent among the Three Musketeers’ firearms. The rifle, named Colt Python as Kidd once called it, was already a sizable rifle, but the current size was beyond comparison. The rifle Luger was wielding, a deep cobalt blue color weapon named 『Cobalt Blue Python』, remained the same as before. However, the translucent mana overlaid on it was not just larger in length, more than five times Luger’s height, and thicker than Luger’s torso, making it so massive that the phrase ‘supported by arm’ didn’t even come close to describe it.

Alexander’s spear spread out on Baileyfus was of a similar length, but the difference between him effortlessly wielding the ‘Spear of Light’ and Luger struggling to hold up the rifle, which felt as heavy as carrying a steel barrel alone, was significant.

“The weight is another matter…!”

It was all due to the weight difference. What in the world was this weight, as if carrying a barrel made of pure steel instead of a mana-overlaid skill?

“Acht-Acht says the barrel weight of the Flegerabwehrkanone is 8,00kg, what in the world is this insane barrel weight-”

Luger successfully received a new skill through the Bottleneck.

『Acht-Acht-3』

Explanation:

“A perfect barrel can hit any angle, any target. The only barrel capable of anti-air, artillery, and fortification. But remember, planning, creating, and bearing it is solely up to you.”


Content: Eliminate synthetic manticore (target: Luger) with Acht-Acht. Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: Failure if killed by synthetic manticore (target: Luger).

The quest was remarkably simple.

Enhance the Cobalt Blue Python using the skill and kill that creature, that’s it!

“Grroarh-Grrr- Guhh-!”

However, he still didn’t know how to handle it properly. Somewhere in the sparsely populated Corrupted World Tree Forest, he continued training daily to become familiar with the skill.

“Uh-hmm, this kind of feeling… Aha.”

“Kneeknee, you must be feeling really crappy.”

“Well, I still have to try it out, right? Check for any differences with each condition… How it’s different under buff status… How it varies with changes in climate and sunlight…”

“You seem to have a lot of time on your hands.”

Middle Earth is not a forgiving game.

Therefore, Chiyou has been busy checking her condition based on each circumstance since logging in. Above all, as the only ‘vampire’ who could roam around during the day, it was essential for her to confirm this status.

“Or should I also go over to the Old Continent? It might be tough with just Igor and Faust.”

“…No, there’s no need for that. It’s better for you to stay here for now.”

“Oh, why is that~?”

Chiyou glanced at Bluebeard, a slight fleeting stiffness in his expression not escaping her notice.

“There is a reason, it’s not for no reason at all. There’s something.”

Bluebeard was tense. At least since Chiyou had met him, there were only a handful of instances where the Demon Lord’s Fragment, le, showed signs of tension.

‘And yet you are tense… I wonder who it could be. An event or a person?’

Chiyou considered it to be a person. If it were an event, Bluebeard would not have been waiting here in the first place.


‘He probably went to find Pyrot Cocri. The most urgent task for him should be finding the third Demon Lord’s Fragment. He must have gone to search, and when the incident broke out, he returned to wait.’

Even setting aside that matter, why would he be in this dim cave? The most reasonable assumption was that he was waiting for someone.

‘Leeha used to be at the northern tip of Shazrashian, in Hamina Castle. It’s a pity.’

She opened the skill window and examined the new skills she had acquired. One of them was to track the location of Leeha. After logging in and conducting sufficient espionage through Sasuke, she finally used the skill. Igor and Faust were already on the move, and characters like Le had failed to stop them. What’s next? Chiyou assumed he would cross to the New Continent and borrow power from Palleo or find Alexander.

“So you’re using skills and doing cute things? How amusing.”

She wished she could just kill Leeha right away, but it wasn’t what she desired at the moment. Most of all, the fact that Le was restraining her movements bothered her.

“Collecting dragons with just Igor and Faust must be tough.”

“Ha-ha, it’s okay. It’s fine. Those two are sufficient. And they need to be there for the Panjorea Ceremony.”

Bluebeard trailed off but then smirked, a hint of a smile forming.

“They need to be there?”

“No, that won’t be enough.”

“What?”

Chiyou remained silent despite Chiyou’s repeated inquiries. Chiyou was persistent.

“Igor and Faust’s goal is to create a Lich Dragon… to oppose something with it? No, they are not intended to fight.”

Chiyou, who didn’t miss the word “oppose”, felt a faint thread of speculation taking hold by carefully observing the muscles in Bluebeard’s face move.

Chiyou: Sasuke.

Sasuke: Yes, oka-san.

“Tell Igor and Faust not to interfere for a while. No, to put it more extremely, tell them there’s no need to collect dragons anymore.”

“Yes, no need? But… that means Bluebeard–uh, got it. That’s what you mean. Chiyou: Le seems to want to use the Lich Dragon as a gift or something.”

Sasuke: What do you mean?

Sasuke sent a confused remark, but Chiyou didn’t respond. There was no need to bring up the topic prematurely at this stage.

Chiyou: Anyway, no more dragon hunting. Tell them they know better what will happen if they violate it. It will be good for them too. Understood?

Sasuke: Yes.

Chiyou: Oh, by the way, did that person happen to contact you?

Sasuke: Yes, they did.

Chiyou smiled broadly upon hearing Sasuke’s response.

Chiyou: Any reaction?

Sasuke: They said they’ll come visit.

Chiyou: I thought so. It’s like the law of alcohol, tobacco, gambling, drugs… Once you taste it, you can’t quit.

She turned around quickly, facing Bluebeard.

“Count, could I possibly get one more vampire?”

“What? A vampire queen like you asking me for such a thing?”

“Oh, come on, I’m just asking for another follower, no problem. But… like Igor or Faust, I’d like it to be ‘merged with’ it.”

Chiyou sat on the edge of Bluebeard’s bed with a sigh.

Le laughed lightly, looking at her.

“Is he a helpful one?”

“Of course. He is a descendant of the 『Flame Mage』. You met him last time, didn’t you?”

“Ah, that guy. Alright, bring him.”

After receiving Bluebeard’s permission, Chiyou whispered something to Sasuke.

“Tell Pyro… that I’ll be waiting.”

One of the descendants of the heroes has leaned over to the side of the complete witch.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:

Power Corrupts, and absolute power corrupts absolutely.

Also, Kidd and Luger having a hard time in their quests after they mocked Leeha about getting their 2nd Job advancement quest without them knowing that Leeha is already in progress with his. 
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Chiyou, who was exchanging whispers with Sasuke, quickly turned around and threw a sharp hairpin.

Due to the winding nature of the cave that had to be entered from the entrance, with no sunlight able to penetrate inside, nothing should be visible as it was the norm.

However, the opponent effortlessly dodged it.

“K-What is this!? Chiyou, you’re being too much!”

The owner of the voice belatedly protested, but Chiyou just smirked, showing an attitude that it didn’t matter whether they complained or not.

“Eh… Prea.”

Chiyou spelled out her name.

“Sniff, you have quite a unique scent.”

Although Bluebeard dismissed it as insignificant, Chiyou displayed her discomfort with her facial expression.

“How did you end up here?”

There was no way Sasuke would have mentioned it. Neither would Igor nor Faust have disclosed it. Above all, this place was unknown to them.

“How did you know about this place?”

“Are you wondering how a family member who eat meals together would know? Of course, I know.”

Prea replied as she caught the hairpin thrown by Chiyou, glancing around. Chiyou briefly glanced at Prea, then turned her head to Bluebeard.

“Count? If I may ask, did Count-”

“No, do you think I would let someone lead me around announcing my whereabouts?”

“I understand.”

A character whose true intentions are hard to distinguish, someone who can’t differentiate between acting and true feelings. Furthermore, a player whose allegiance is unclear, whether they are allies or enemies! For Chiyou, Prea was a variable in and of herself.

It was a balancing act— letting go of her entirely was a waste, yet embracing her unconditionally was risky. She wanted to keep her distance, but if she tried to do that, Prea would approach first.


How should she handle this situation?

“Can you see your surroundings clearly?”

“Yes, well. My eyes aren’t just white for no reason. It’s fine without the 『light』.”

“Mhmm.”

Chiyou couldn’t quite grasp Prea’s expression. Prea thought there was no need to say such things, as Chiyou was in the middle of inserting the spirit of light, wulwis, into her eyes. Above all, mastering the fusion of spirit and physical body is an advanced skill even for spirit wielders. There was no need to say it out loud.

“Then, you don’t need ‘Vampire Enchantment’?”

“Vampire Enchantment? What’s that?”

“If you’re going to pretend you don’t know, forget it.”

As Chiyou turned away, Prea urgently grabbed her forearm.

“Hehe, w-well, that… even though I would like to, I’m a Spiritualist. If I accept that, my spirits will be bound to wishes.”

“Are you trying to make excuses?”

“It’s not an excuse, it’s true! I promise!”

Prea looked at Chiyou with an unjust expression on her face. Chiyou also met her gaze, hoping for some sign from Prea, but Prea just nodded her head without revealing any clues.

‘If I let Prea escape like this again, I’d rather she receives strength from Le or becomes a vampire. Then, maybe I could trust her completely. Or rather, control her completely underwater. At least, she wouldn’t feel this unease right now. But as this unpredictable situation continues, every time Chiyou looks at Prea, she feels frustration.’

“Okay. So, Prea, what are you going to do from now on?”

“What am I going to do? Just level up around here, and if you need me, I’ll come back. That’s how it goes.”

Every expression of Prea didn’t sit well with Chiyou, but she couldn’t get caught up in every little thing. Chiyou nodded her head, and Prea bid goodbye to Chiyou and Bluebeard before leaving the cave once again.

After ensuring that the Spiritualist had completely left and even using skills to confirm that the surrounding spirit energy couldn’t be felt at all, chie finally spoke.

“Why… are you letting that bitch go, Count?”

One of the questions Chiyou was curious about was this very thing. Why was Bluebeard tolerating Prea’s presence?


It is certain that Prea and Bluebeard made a deal.

‘The existence of Dark Spirits. Lending power to obtain it. Yes, it is an undeniable fact that perfectly fits my conjecture.’

While it is true that Prea has done some work for Bluebeard and Chiyou, now the risks outweigh the value of their services. Why does Bluebeard still have her by his side?

Sitting on a rock, Bluebeard continued to smile at Chiyou.

“Chiyou, Chiyou.”

“Yes?”

“You know what that girl wants.”

“Yes, it was undoubtedly… the 『Key』.”

“The Key to the Elemental Realm… Even if she had that key, she cannot use it.”

“What??”

Prea made a deal with Chiyou. It was the 『Key to the Elemental Realm』. This item was unique to her, and there were only a few of them in all of Middle Earth.

‘Even if she can unlock a sealed lock, she must consider whether the ones inside will open the door.’

“… Are you saying the spirits are physically blocking the door?”

“Haha! Your humor has improved! But you’re not entirely wrong. Even with your scent, entering the Elemental Realm is likely impossible.”

That much was enough for Chiyou.

Why was Bluebeard risking Prea like this? What is the reason for entrusting the 『Key to the Elemental Realm』, a special item, to a top-level Elementalist at the risk of danger, even in Middle Earth? When Chiyou remained silent, Bluebeard’s eyebrow raised.

“You’re quick to catch on, which is good. You know what you need to do, right?”

“We must quickly retrieve that key.”

“The more, the better—but you won’t find many. Even if you search the entire world, finding three would be considered a lot.”

“I see…”


Chiyou nodded his head.

At that moment, Bluebeard clearly defined his goal.”Let’s start with just one for now. And we need to make sure that the Wood Elf opens the door in front of us.”

“Hmph, but this wouldn’t be considered trespassing, right?”

“How could this be trespassing? We’ll be using the key they left behind to enter. Well, from their perspective, we might seem like unwelcome guests sneaking in behind a guest.”

“Definitely… I doubt any homeowner would appreciate someone barging in uninvited.”

Chiyou countered with a playful swipe, sporting a mischievous smile.

‘I might not know if it’s a tangible land, but I will be the first one to illuminate that place… Haha, become a prophet.’

Chiyou understood that Bluebeard’s words hinted at the existence of another world in Middle Earth where existence itself was uncertain, implying an expansion of the map where one could wander.

※※※

“Something else needs preparing- Oh, what’s this?”

At that moment, Leeha was sorting through the items in his bag. Amidst the jumbled ammo clips, grenades, various lanterns, crystals, and scrolls, a key emitting a radiant light caught his eye.

“The 『Key to the Spirit World』 is here. Wait, when do we use this?”

After taking the key out of the bag and examining it closely, Leeha tucked it back into a corner of the bag. He didn’t even consider that this item, which would be coveted by all spirit mages, entities, creatures with spiritual ties, and all races embodied by spirits in Middle Earth, could come in handy.

“Oh, I could use this to tease Prea, couldn’t I? Ah, but there’s no need.”

Terror spirits and dark spirits were more than enough. Moreover, there had been several occasions where things went awry due to Leeha being overly dedicated to their mission.

“I just need to control her using the dark spirits, that’s all. Ah, if I happen to encounter dark spirits elsewhere, there might be a chance to form a contract there… Hmm.”

Leeha was also in a state where it was difficult to clearly determine if Prea was on the same team or not. How long could they control he using dark spirit, the spirit of darkness, as an excuse?

What if she turned into a vampire?

There must be a close relationship between vampires, beings of the night, and the dark spirits.

“I might have many shortcomings.”

“Oh! No, no. Just thinking about something else… Hehe.”

Leeha reassured the White Reaper. Of course, it wasn’t just to neatly arrange the items in the bag for easy viewing.

… It seems they might be lacking.

Leeha didn’t know how many enemies there will be. He coultn’t predict how many enemies will come for them. The deadline is 100 days.

Why did he have to stay here for 100 days above all else?

『It’s not a waste of time. We can’t do that. We are preparing for it.』

Leeha and the White Reaper engaged in lengthy conversations after clearly understanding the enemy’s objectives. The massive map laid out in front of them was the culmination of those discussions.

“Wow, this is really impressive.”

The map, filled with countless symbols and different colors indicating various terrains nearby, detailed not only the topography and buildings but also the angles of sniping and shooting, along with effective directions.

While Leeha was concentrating on studying the map, the White Reaper asked, 『You mentioned ‘Pre-emptive Attack’, which sounds good to me, but… if it’s difficult, there’s no need to resort to such methods. As I mentioned before, I have an ethereal form; their regular attacks won’t work on me.』

“Regular attacks may not work, but… there are those who know Shimo’s condition. They will surely mobilize mages and come after us. Targeting only them might be a way, but this time it will be different from before.”

“Oh, really? I’ve taken down countless giant mages so far, but that alone wouldn’t reduce their absolute numbers.”

Leeha felt a bit bitter. The White Reaper seemed to have weakened visibly after Leeha’s successful snipe, almost as if he was taken aback by it.

‘I don’t understand why his strength weakens as soon as he’s hit by my bullet, but… at least in that respect, it’s similar to Faust’s undying summons, isn’t it?’

Leeha still vividly remembered it.

Faust’s latest summon: an undead withstood physical attacks without being affected, alongside a fire spirit attached to a child’s hand.

Was there a resemblance between that and the White Reaper?

Even though he was eager to research, now wasn’t the time for it.

Sensing Shimo’s tense mood, Leeha burst into laughter.

“Hehe, I can’t say I have nothing for Shimo-nim, but without the Pre-emptive Attack strategy, we might not be able to hold out.”

One must not dwell on difficulties. Think about difficult things, but keep a cool head. For Leeha, the worst scenario would be the Giant Users and NPCs divided into several groups periodically sending waves.

“If the enemy is from the forest, it might be easier in the short term… The battlefield is vast, and with fewer numbers, the risk of overlooking something is high. Most importantly, facing the constant stream of enemies requires unwavering focus.”

That wasn’t something Leeha desired either.

The key was to win the fight in the beginning.

“Suppress the momentum in the Pre-emptive Attack. When the key figures suffer a penalty of death and are prohibited from logging in for 48 hours… that will be the only time for a break.”

Staying only in the Middle Earth was not an option. Considering Leeha’s sleep patterns, the keyword “Pre-emptive Attack” was appropriate for the current situation, and for that reason, Leeha was deep in discussions with the White Reaper about detailed tactics. However, some of the information marked on the massive operation plan seemed excessive and unnecessary.

(To be continued…)
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“Oh, by the way, regarding wind direction and speed… Hmm, I’m not doubting it, of course. But considering how the wind changes frequently, do we really need to record it like this?”

Leeha shook his head. Among the figures recited by the White Reaper without hesitation, there were even details about wind direction and speed. What’s the point of jotting down such information now? Nevertheless, when Leeha looked at the list, the White Reaper smiled and replied, 『You can trust it. I only listed the points where wind speed and direction do not change, after all.』

※ ※ ※

“What??”

Leeha looked at the White Reaper with a bewildered expression.

“The wind direction and speed don’t change?”

How could you be so sure about that? At least, to make such a statement, you would need data collected from observing at least five different timeframes every day for more than three months, right? However, when Leeha looked, the White Reaper had never engaged in such observational practices even once, so it was natural to be skeptical.

『Leeha, maybe my nickname was given for a reason? To you, it may seem insignificant, but… I have a few bragging rights too.』

“If you have any bragging rights-”

『You’ll find out later. Just know that what you see with your own eyes isn’t everything.』

White Reaper elegantly quoted the Leeha’s words. The statements of the top-ranking NPC must not be taken lightly. Leeha recalled the time when the White Reaper was engaged in a sniping battle.

‘Right, the wind here is- excuse my language- a real mess.’ The dust continued to fall in patches, and the sun was intense there. Not only the temperature difference, but also the humidity, wind direction, and wind speed varied by meters, to the point where Leeha thought it was fortunate that he used a curved shot, as there were many points of turbulence and jet streams forming.

In such a place, the White Reaper managed to pull off an almost perfect snipe.

“What you see is not everything… It’s visible… Could it be… You said, ‘it’s visible’ in the sense of what I’m thinking-”

『If you can carry on my name, it means you already have that ability… You can expect that with confidence.』

“Well… I see! Haha! That’s how it was possible, right?”

How would you interpret even the slightest rising breath? That was the skill “Eagle’s Eye” or using a “scope” didn’t make it visible.

‘I barely dodged it. No, strictly speaking, it grazed me. I didn’t dodge it at all. At the time of the first sniper battle climbing up the hill to confront Karelin, the white bullet of the White Ghost passed by the side of my cheek. Thankfully, it only grazed me because I twisted my neck at the last moment; if not, it would’ve hit me square in the face. After confirming the White Ghost’s position through the angle of impact and gunfire, I fired a shot and then shifted about 400m to the left.’

Even as I carefully moved to prevent my camouflage from being revealed, a bullet passed near me. If I hadn’t shifted position, my head would have been in the very place the bullet passed by. How could that happen? It was a simple matter in retrospect. Did he sense my breath? How could he!? What did “the eye of NPC” see for the second job advancement?


“It seems like it could be quite fun, right?” 『It will be fun as long as you’re prepared. I’ll be back shortly.”』

Lifting the correction rune, I pondered what abilities I would gain after the second job advancement. Although I couldn’t be sure of the exact number, I could vaguely guess one of them.

Shuwaahhheeyy.

Heading towards Gaza City, two days had passed. At the request of Leeha, Jin Gonggong stood in front of the Remlin Palace in Shazrashian, surrounded by numerous giants.

“This is insane. Ha Leeha-nim, what are we supposed to do with this…!”

The crowd was so vast that one could hardly take a step. By the time Jin Gonggong arrived, the number of people had already exceeded a thousand. Particularly now, the square in front of the Remlin Palace was so crowded that it was difficult to move.

“It’s definitely over a million… Just in this square!”

Truly an enormous gathering. The place was so cramped that even the capital city couldn’t accommodate everyone. It’s hard to say how many more people wanted to depart immediately.

“I’ve only investigated the quest details. How am I supposed to stop this?”

『Common Quest (Shazrashian, Giants): Winter Resource War』

Description: “Dear citizens, let’s expand our narrow land and benefit our nation and people through national defense! By opening up the area that has been closed until now around Minna Castle’s northern point, access was granted to the previously inaccessible space. President Vladimir of the Shazrashian Federation wants all the giants under the federation to exert their strength. Within 100 days, they must occupy the designated point, expand the territory, and explore new regions never seen before!

Quest details:

Within 100 days, at least 5 giants must reach point 204 in the northern part of Hamina Castle.

Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: Exceeding the deadline.

Consequences of failure: ?

This is the Tale of a quest that Jin Gonggong has investigated. Although she has already conveyed the information to the others…

“Taking all of this into account? Only a madman would -”

*Kuwung!*

*Kuwung!*


Just as Jin Gonggong was about to advise Leeha once again, a loud noise echoed through the square in front of Remlin Palace.

The tumultuous giants fell silent at once. Jin Gonggong looked at them, once again surprised. The individuals gathered here were not part of a single organization. Apart from national wars, there has never been such a large-scale event to mobilize this many people. Moreover, there are not just 400, but possibly even more users here.

“Even with such unity… It’s hard to believe that it’s reached this level, almost as if amplifying a spark into a thousand times wouldn’t cause the brain to be this…”

Jin Gonggong pondered while synchronizing her actions with the surrounding giants. Everyone was facing the same direction. There, some people were flying in the air.

Among them were President Vladimir of Shazrashian, Karelin, and some high-ranking NPC officials, and users. Even Jin Gonggong, whose heart was pounding with concerns and excitement, felt like shouting, yet the surroundings remained silent.

Not a single cheer or applause, they looked at their president like disciples looking at their master.

“I-I wouldn’t even do this with robots. It’s not even a real military force— huh?!”

Military force. The image Jin Gonggong had of the thousands of giants gathered here was completely different.

“To all my beloved citizens…”

The deafening sound of the Roaring Magic resounded loudly, and finally, the President of Shazrashian opened his mouth.

『I, Vladimir, have been deeply moved by the love for our country that all of you have gathered here. Although we came together under the name of the Federation, we had not been able to unite due to various circumstances… just by proving that we can be of one mind and one heart, I feel like I have glimpsed the brilliant future of our nation.』 President Vladimir spoke with a voice that seemed like he could burst into tears at any moment. His words contained emotions beyond what NPCs could express, and the giant users gathered there were sufficiently intoxicated by them. Therefore, not many felt any discomfort.

“‘One mind, one heart… proof?’

If what Bantal, and Amunsan Trio said is true-”

Jin Gonggong could tell. Since he was not a member of Shazrashian, it was not his concern. Who was the target of this quest? In the Shazrashian Federation, there were not only giants but also humans, a few Wood Elves and Lizardians, and even Miyaw.

But what about this quest?

“-It must be something only giants can do, right?”

One mind, one heart? Can that be considered one mind, one heart? This was the main complaint frequently mentioned in the community. Non-giant race players suffered from too many disadvantages.

Tips encouraging immigration or seeking asylum were overflowing on various communities, so President Vladimir’s words were definitely not true. Of course, the giant users gathered here would not care about such things.

‘They are the beneficiaries.’ Those who benefit cannot understand the suffering of those who are criticized.

“To the great citizens who love our country, I ask for your help. To the place we have never been able to reach before, the place that was taken from us! Please help us expand our territory once again! We should not be concerned about what is in that place.”


Vladimir regulated his breathing and clenched his fist tightly. Even Jin Gonggong, who was far away, could see his exaggerated gestures.

“We must advance gallantly and regain the past glory. The conquest of our future is solely up to us!”

The President shouted in an elevated tone. As soon as his words ended, thunderous applause erupted from the users and NPCs around President, including Karelin. Starting like a wind catcher, all the giant users gathered in Remlin Palace Square began to chant and applaud.

“Let’s go!”

“For our land!”

With our hands!

Let’s take it back-!

『Hamina Castle’s manager will be in charge of temporary supply. Get the necessary items from there immediately!』 Aaaah…!

The Giant users, including Jin Gonggong, furrowed their brows for a moment at the light emanating from the President’s body.

“Such a splendid performance.”

『Charge! The first to step forward among the Giants will forever be remembered in the history of Shazrashian!』

As the intoxicating and paralyzing speech came to an end, the Remlin Palace Square was once again enveloped in excitement. Words of courage, valor, glory, and honor, sprinkled with words that Giant users playing in Shazrashian would appreciate, elicited an immediate response from them.

Already seeing flashes of light twinkling in various places, Jin Gonggong quietly let out a sigh.

Jin Gonggong: Ha Leeha-nim, everyone is setting off. The Lord of Hamina Castle will be in charge of supply.

Leeha: Well, that cowardly Giant… Okay. Thank you, Jingyeongjeong-ssi. Even if we catch only a few, it will be over 20,000. No, I can’t even estimate if that number is accurate. In the thousands, even tens of thousands were occasionally encountered in battles in the New Continent 『Divine Staff』—huh, but don’t worry just because it’s ten thousand people, we’re not going to fight ten against one.

Jin Gonggong: Really?

Jin Gonggong chuckled, tilting his head. Fighting at a ratio of 10,000:1? Is that it?

Leeha: Well, since it’s not just ten thousand, are we going to fight with 20,000 or 30,000?

He didn’t quite understand, but he didn’t elaborate further on that point.

“They are coming. Shimo-nim, please stay here.”

『Do I really not have to go? Moreover, I… Without even bringing a dragon with you, alone-』

“It’s fine. Ah, Blaugrunn-ssi! You need to defend the final line!”

Saying this, he turned around and left the ruined building, holding the Black Bass.

Literally, the final destination that the Giants of Shazrashian had to reach. And what was blocking their path was Blaugrunn.

“I really don’t know how Ha Leeha-nim sees me and says such things…”

“But don’t worry too much. I won’t send Koma back either. Blaugrunn probably won’t even have a chance to appear, right?”

“-Yes.”

“Kikik, then let’s start! I’ve captured Rising Sun before, fought at the origin of evil, but…”

Click. Leeha inserted the magazine and pulled the trigger.

(To be continued…)
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He had experience fighting against hundreds of opponents. He had even unleashed Blaugrunn, Koma, and Jellypong against thousands of monsters before.

“Dealing with tens of thousands for the first time, huh?”

And it wasn’t just a simple NPCs or monsters, but facing a colossal group that included players was a first for him.

He barely suppressed the roaring of his own heart.

“First of all, it’s the first defense line.”

This battle wasn’t about confronting the White Reaper’s Ghost. So, why did Shimo and the others draw up this massive plan?

“There are no restrictions on battlefield absorption.”

To defend the occupied territories, should they just sit and wait in one place? Leeha wasn’t that foolish.

He didn’t boast that just two people along with a dragon, bear, and an unknown jelly(?) could withstand tens of thousands. In order to crush the enemy in the initial clash and to capture their first momentum, the method Shimo had chosen was precisely this: “Pre-emptive Attack.”

Leeha left the town where the White Reaper had been executed through the iron gate.

: ※ ※ “Knights of Kravost, assemble everyone!”

“Knights of Trin-Orrel, never fall! Check your equipment, everyone!”

“Wild Grizzly guild members, we must take the lead! Don’t fall behind!”

The northern exit of Hamina Castle was in chaos with overflowing giants.

It wasn’t just because of President Shazrashian’s declaration of honor. All giants who had accepted the quest offered with a deadline had the right to participate in this quest.

Then, how would the rewards be distributed?

It was a quest that would end if only five out of ten thousand participants reached the destination within 100 days.

If we assume the current number of participants is ten thousand, would the rewards be the same for the five who reached there and the 9,995 who did not?

“That would never happen.”


“After all, there’s hardly anyone you can call enemies. No, most of them wouldn’t even know there are enemies. The information about a guy named Ha Leeha is top-grade information. Since there are few who know about it, if we prepare for that alone-”

“Our guild-”

“We-”

They’re eating.

The reason why the giants gathered here were jostling each other like horny bears trying to claim their territory was exactly that. Of course, it was no surprise to anticipate such movements, and currently, a few giants in the north of Hamina Castle were controlling them.

“Bantal-nim, are you really okay?”

“Hahaha! Who else but me and the Amunsan Trio should be at the vanguard? If not us, would Karelin-nim come forward himself?”

“It’s still okay. I have faced Leeha myself, so…”

“Such a joke. You still don’t know the real power of Leeha. If that guy had called someone else as a helper, it would have been even more chaotic. That’s why we-”

Kuung Woong…!

The surrounding giants suddenly started to growl.

The reason was that something was appearing with a dazzling light around Bantal, which was empty just moments ago.

“Indeed… Are you trying to summon even that?”

Karelin looked astonished as he gazed at the item brought by the Amunsan Trio and other giants, barbarian heroes.

“Wow-!”

“W-what is that!? That thing can’t be…!”

“Bantal! It’s an item created by the barbarian hero profession, ‘Hero’s Legacy’ Bantal!”

“Insane, where are you seeing that it’s barbaric? It’s the civilization’s state-of-the-art!”

“A tank?! And three of them?”

Having experienced the expedition to the New Continent, Bantal had conducted a lot of research on Kraven’s ships.


The title of barbarian hero is just part of the profession after all! There’s no way they were ignorant just because of the title. Just by the title of the Hero’s Legacy, it’s been proven how rough of a play can be made, and conversely, how capable refined play can be.

He focused on the reinforced pontoon that was attached to Kraven’s galleon and other ships and pondered how it could be useful in the mountainous and icy structures of Shazrashian.

“Actually, hahaha! It’s our 『Faction』 guild’s custom-made ‘Assault-Type Armored Vehicle’!”

It was a custom-made assault-type armored vehicle with an infinite track, skis added to the bottom, propelled by the skills of the barbarian heroes, allowing it to move forward. It had a giant ram attached to the front, hence the name “Assault-Type Armored Vehicle.”

It had the appearance of its name, extremely large, and thick.

Above all, it was sturdy and sophisticated. The masterpiece crafted by Bantal was on a different level from makeshift carts made roughly from wood.

It was much larger than a real-life armored vehicle and could carry many people while gaining speed, functioning as a super-sized war machine.

“We can’t spend a hundred days on this! Let’s focus on this one thing and finish before the sunset!”

When Bantal shouted at the giants, a huge cheer erupted. Watching the scene, Karelin nodded his head. He didn’t want to drag it out for a long time either.

“There are 27,783 total gunfighters. There’s no need to waste all our time on something as trivial as this event.”

With NPC knights participating in this quest and a total of around 30,000 users, Karelin found it absurd to waste 100 days dealing with so many giants as the Quest Manager himself.

“Then I’ll trust you with it.”

“Good! Once the supplies are ready, everyone grab your weapons! Charge at full speed! Don’t even let those weaklings who are too weak to fight it out among themselves near us!”

He didn’t particularly want any special formations. He didn’t bother polishing up their front line.

Trusting in the profession of barbarian warriors and assault armored vehicles, they pushed forward as is. The over 30,000 giants stared back like angered beasts, particularly eyeing the land beyond the front wall, the territory of the Hamina Castle in the north.

“As soon as you’re ready-”

Bantal raised both hands, riling up their morale.

His loud voice suddenly stopped. By that time, the powerful sound of something collapsing was heard.

“… Huh?”

“Huh?”


“What- what’s happening?”

Even the Amunsan Trio standing beside Bantal was momentarily taken aback. Bantal, who had been about to give a speech just a moment ago, was now collapsing forward.

Thud.

His body collapsed, transforming into light. There was nothing on his neck. The first to notice the situation was Karelin.

“Everyone, move back! Ha Leeha-”

Bang bang bang…! Gunshots were heard in the distance. With only three seconds left until the command to advance from the Hamina Castle, a high-ranking figure from the Shazarsian Federation Quest Assault Team was dead.

“Hyung!”

“Don’t go out! You’ll die if you go out!”

“Where are they shooting from?! Check it out! Start with the investigation of Leeha’s movement!”

The Amunsan Trio urgently hid behind the Assault-Type Armored Vehicle, directing towards their surroundings. Just a moment of confusion passed when they didn’t know what was happening, but they were users who had also participated in the expedition to the New Continent. The loss of Bantal was heartbreaking, but they couldn’t dwell on it for too long.

“Find cover! Leeha is nearby!”

『Detect』!”

『The piercing gaze of a bird aiming its prey』!”

『Hunter’s scent』!”

Various giant specialized job classes, including barbarian warriors, used their respective skills. However, their expressions stiffened.

“He’s not here!”

“T-There’s no one around! Attacker’s location not confirmed!”

This was just an open field right in front of the north gate of Hamina Castle. Even the monsters nearby were repressed by the imposing presence of the giant army, they didn’t dare to reveal themselves, and the terrain itself wasn’t even flat. And yet, they couldn’t be seen? Not even affected by the skills.

“More than during the expedition to the New Continent.”

“It has increased significantly. Much… increased.”

The Amunsan Trio bit their lips while looking at each other’s faces. Regrets were best dealt with at the earliest moment. Karelin, who was the first to hide, looked at them and shouted, “Amunsan Trio! Is the armored vehicle operational?! Even without Bantal—”

“Whether it’s operational or not! Our strength is what drives it, even if the eldest hyung only gives orders.”

“Then, charge ahead! Transport as many giants as possible and charge!”

Fortunately, after the first attack, there were no casualties. Karelin thought of this as a stroke of luck.

“It was the same when fighting Human Flesh Hunter. He shot at a distance just a little over 1 kilometer. If I couldn’t see them with my Detect… If we think backwards, where would Leeha be now?”

Probably waiting around a point about 1.4 km away from here, still using a skill that couldn’t be detected even with transparent removal. If so, would it not be more practical to rush towards that village where the Human Flesh Hunter were from here in a reckless manner? That was Karelin’s conclusion, and the Amunsan Trio understood his brief instructions.

“The 『Beggars』 guild is all aboard! Keep moving forward, don’t hesitate, even without the Amunsan Trio, we will operate as we practiced!” “What in the world is this, damn it!? Listen up, everyone! Stick together at the back! Form a sturdy shield formation around the shield bearers, and stick to the rear of the armored vehicles!” These were the giants who belonged to the guild led by the descendants of barbarian heroes. They demonstrated formidable firepower not only in individual combat but also in group battles, immediately ordering a defense-oriented formation and issuing commands to the giants at the forefront. Karelin also crouched down and ran towards the rear, shouting, “All the NPC Knights of Shazrashian, remember! Deploy the strongest shield possible to the front and run until you reach a point where you are certain that Ha Leeha’s attack is over!”

While using Teleport Crystals would have been the best option, the place was a secret within Shazrashian, so only a few had stored them. Also, with over 30,000 people potentially teleporting at the same time, there was a risk of overlapping and manpower loss, so ultimately, running was the only answer.

“Tanks, forward! Shields!”

“Raise the shields, you bastards!”

“What sudden nonsense is this!?”

“But, didn’t they say there was nothing? Then who’s that?”

The giants in the middle and rear were bewildered. Especially since the true identity of the ‘enemies’ was not clearly defined in this quest or the President’s speech, it was as good as being struck by lightning for users who didn’t know about Leeha or the White Reaper.

“Is Middle Earth an ordinary game! Naturally, there must be something, that’s why the President told us to charge in no matter what the ‘something’ is! Get a grip, and run!” If it were Fibiel or Minis, it would have been different. They would have scrutinized the quest a bit more. But Shazrashian didn’t do that. With a clear goal in sight, they ran.

“Engine 1 started.”

“Engine 2 ready.”

“Boarding Engine 3!”

The Amunsan Trio were ready. They simultaneously used a skill, 『Titan’s Legs』!”

Their mana-enriched thighs swelled explosively. Each giant armored vehicle could carry around two hundred giants, including the personnel who could fit behind the massive chassis and escape safely. When three such vehicles advanced simultaneously, those watching from a distance of about 440 meters away couldn’t help but be somewhat surprised. Even though it was a distance where the giants were barely visible, the awe-inspiring presence of the armored vehicles stood out clearly inside the scopes.

“Wow… that’s impressive. It doesn’t seem like something you can just crush, does it?”

The bystander marveled, munching on a sandwich. It was a feeling similar to seeing Kraven’s fleet during the national war.

“There is no need to shoot anyone at this point; it’s unnecessary.”

There was no intention to target the giants, who were hiding and wriggling around.

(To be continued…)
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“It was supposed to be enough to capture just one top commander. I never expected it would be Bantal-nim…”

Leeha raised the Black Bass in reluctance, aiming through the scope and observing the targets, but soon lowered the rifle.

“If the speed is like this… it won’t even take 10 minutes to break through the 210th point.”

Killing Bantal alone did not achieve the Pre-Emptive Attack’s success. He fidgeted with something in his left hand while looking at them. At this moment, there was one person that came to mind.

“Luger, you also received a lot of hints thanks to me… Don’t be too upset that I’m using it to this extent.”

The noon sun had passed a little further. Checking that around 10 minutes had passed, he raised the scope once more and looked at the giant army.

“Wow, there are still troops pouring out from Hamina Castle.”

There were still giants pouring out from the north gate of Hamina Castle, totaling around 30,000 troops. They were not continuously streaming out but rather troops that started late. Considering that the leading tanks had already passed the 2.6km point, it was certain that the troops were spread out over a vast distance.

“If the head is seized… it’s not because they are giants of Shazrashian but because according to the quest information Jin Gonggong-ssi provided, there’s no way they’d be wiped out. The natural strategy is to break through quickly with a thorough offensive.”

There was no need to slow down the speed. Leeha had a strategy, so they must have their own strategy too.

“Quick and decisive. Without sharing enough information about me, you will come running.”

Now the distance between the lead and Leeha was only about 2km. Leeha lowered his head. A slightly, very slightly apologetic expression crept onto his face.

“I didn’t want it to come to this extent, but if you have money and skills, what else can you develop?”

Then he quietly pressed the button of something in his left hand.

“War technology.”

『You have leveled up.』

『You have leveled up.』

“Well, that makes sense. Treating each other as monsters, huh?”

Leeha glanced at the leveling up effects and notification windows, while admiring the giant red flower blooming outside, 2km away. A timed bomb with remote control technology granted by Luger’s technology. Even with the addition of Bottleneck’s technology, it’s an item with an extraordinarily high production cost. But, who was Leeha?


“Don’t underestimate the Lord of Gaza City”, he muttered under his breath as he turned away. How many people just logged out due to the explosion moments ago? Even with a conservative estimate, he believed it would be over 1,000. Babang! The achievement displayed before him directly referenced that.

『Achievement: Giant Slayer (B)』

Impressive! Your relentless efforts against the Giant race have driven them to anger. Over 100 Giants have fallen by your hand, prompting the fiercest Giants to rise in search of you. But rest assured, Middle Earth’ world knows that you have not engaged in indiscriminate slaughter, merely completing your task. Reward: Strength +7, stamina +7

『Achievement: Giant Executioner (A)』

Impressive! Even the archenemy of the Giants wouldn’t stoop to such deeds! With over 1,000 cumulative kills, opinions among the Giant race are divided between needing to find you and listening to your words. Your strength is so formidable that it even prompts the Giants, who prefer fighting and competition over anything else, to consider ‘different opinions.’ We may not cheer for you, but we will be watching your path. Reward: Strength +8, stamina +8 Movement speed +5% in combat against Giant race You are the first registrant of the achievement: 『Giant Executioner』. The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effects will be applied.

Effects: Strength +16, stamina +16 Movement speed +10% in combat against Giant race “A thousand cumulative kills…”

Leeha chuckled, looking at the description window of the achievement. When he had killed 100, the Giants had been fervently searching for him, but now that the number had reached 1,000, they seemed to fear finding him instead.

‘But if you slaughter 1,000 on the first day of battle… Hm, it’s a strange feeling.’

The infamous White Reaper began to make a name for himself during the previous war. Back then, he had earned the title of ‘Human Flesh Hunter’, with a record of 542 kills. And that was over a hundred days. In comparison, isn’t the accumulated 1,000 kills in just a few hours on the first day of this hundred-day period an incomparable achievement?

“It must be because I had a prohibited item”, Leeha said as the explosion gradually faded away in the distance. The process of creating a bomb of this magnitude was far from smooth sailing. It wasn’t due to a lack of money or technology.

“No, it must be done.”

***

“It’s absolutely necessary! It cannot be contained at the level of a standard bomb—”

“Lord, I’m different from other dwarf blacksmiths. I know how to handle gunpowder and even dynamite. I can work with divine and cerebral gears. That’s why we need to be even more careful”, Bottleneck said quietly and firmly.

Leeha bit his lip slightly, and as he closed his mouth, Bottleneck opened his again.

“These ‘weapons carry no will within. It’s not magic. Just think about how dangerous it is to create chunks of gunpowder that only repeat killing, especially making it so convenient to use them from a distance. Do you realize how risky it is if someone else other than me learns to make them? If items infused with time and skill are utilized later?”

“Well, then…”

“The Gaza City might be blown to pieces, lord. This isn’t something you create recklessly.”

Bottleneck discouraged Leeha, mentioning ethics at times and the potential for reverse threats.

Of course, Leeha understood more than just that.


“That’s right, it’s a basic rule. In Middle Earth, the standard for bombs is limited to lighting the fuse and throwing it within range. Using that extensively from a distance? Then I could easily turn into a terrorist who swiftly blows up all the city walls. Bottleneck’s firm attitude was, in contrast, a warning from Middle Earth’s ‘system’ and ‘developers’.”

“Still, you have to do it. This time. It’s crucial.”

“What, after everything I’ve said, you still say that?!”

Leeha understood everything, but this time was unavoidable. To face a giant whose number was unknown, a long-range bomb was crucial for his ambush strategy.

“Yes. You promised. Even if it meant risking your life to receive a favor.”

The legendary blacksmith’s face contorted. And the devout NPC follower who kept his promise was speechless. In the end, this time, he had to create an overbalanced item.

“Well, even if I wanted to make it again, I don’t have the money… It’s a shame, a waste. No, not the time for such thoughts.”

Normally, this would be the point for a strategic retreat. But until everyone, including Leeha, anticipated the unexpected item, they couldn’t afford to back down.

“Keeping the armored forces in place and the reinforcements later would be a hassle.”

If there’s a time, it’s now. With the enemies still not fully alert, they needed to act decisively. Leeha’s figure vanished in an instant.

“Armored vehicles! Check the armored vehicles first! Brothers, is everyone alive?”

“What, cough, what’s happening?”

“… We’re dead once Bantal comes back.”

Watching the huge explosion from behind, the Amunsan Trio trembled in fear. It was a stroke of luck that the armored vehicle wasn’t caught in the blast, but most of the giants that were chasing behind the armored vehicle had completely evaporated.

“Pilot! What’s the situation up front?”

– We’re okay! Thankfully, everything seems to be fine!

The individuals steering the vehicle from within were Rangers belonging to the 『Pack』 guild, where Bantal and the Amunsan Trio were members.

“It was a bone-crushing hit, but since the armored vehicle is still intact, let’s keep moving, amunsan Trio!”

Of course, there were quite a few people inside the armored vehicle.

As the driving force behind the Amunsan Trio, as long as the armored vehicle’s tracks remained intact and the terrain didn’t collapse, the vehicle could keep running.


“Whew-!”

“Haaargh!”

The Amunsan Trio began pushing with all their might against the giant vehicle, feeling the immense pressure of having to push creatures larger than themselves, but they didn’t earn their reputation for nothing.

The infinite tracks of the armored vehicle started spinning again, and on the low-friction snowy terrain, they believed they could quickly pick up speed.

Crash-

That was until the sound of shattering glass echoed!

“What the… What’s going on!? Pilot! Grab the wheel!”

It was at that moment that the leading armored vehicle on the far right started veering off in a strange direction.

The eldest of the Amunsan Trio shouted towards the interior of the armored vehicle, but the chilling reply came back.

– The, pilot, is dead!

“What? What? What are you saying!”

However, the Pack guild member who had been reporting the situation to the Amunsan Trio soon fell silent.

“What’s happening, you bastards! You need to tell me-”

“Taaaaaang————…

Damn it!”

I can’t see inside.

But the sound of something breaking, the sudden turn of the steering wheel on the armored vehicle, and the silence of the guild members who were reporting on the situation.

Adding gunfire to the three, everything was perfectly understood.

“Anyone grab the handle! Just turn the handle back to its original state! Don’t worry, I’m here to drive!”

From the outside, it might seem like an easy task, but for those inside, it was like hell.

“T-That’s—impossible—damn it!”

“Reverse! Reverse! Get away from the window! Don’t push, you bastard!”

There was no room to dodge. Inside the armored vehicle, the only view of the outside world was through a glass window that was barely over 200mm in diameter.

There was a ‘hole’ right in front of the steering wheel, and how could they catch the bullets coming in a hail through that opening.

“Hey! Why are you coming this way!? We’ll die if you keep coming!”

“I’m not going because I want to!”

Bang!

As the far-right armored vehicle lost control and veered to the left, the central vehicle’s glass window exploded outwards as if bursting.

Once again, through the small window measuring less than 2000mm in width and height, the driver faced a fate similar to the glass window, struck by bullets flying in.

“Grab the handle, grab it!”

“You too, hurry! Can you go any faster?”

By killing the driver of the frontmost armored vehicle and rendering it immobilized when it lost its direction, they went on to neutralize the second armored vehicle.

Since they hadn’t yet picked up speed, they couldn’t suddenly accelerate. The leftmost and rearmost armored vehicle, which had started the slowest, would eventually be blocked by the two previous vehicles losing their sense of direction.

“How can we speed up now!?”

“If we could, we would have! But that’s—” Bang—!

What if the driver also died there? All three armored vehicles lost their drivers.

The giant users of the 『Pack』 guild, who were known for their bravery in battles, could not step up to take the wheel.

Because this was not a battle.

It looked more like a street fight leading to a tomb than a battle. It took just 4 minutes for the lone sniper to completely neutralize the three armored vehicles. (To be continued…)
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Like three armored vehicles facing off, about five more minutes passed as the tilted map stayed still.

The Amunsan Trio tried to encourage the guild members, but once disheartened, they couldn’t even move past the handle.

“It’s over. We should leave this behind.”

“… Who would’ve thought it would end up like this for one person. What about shields? Tell the tanks to guard the front…”

“Is there anyone who would charge in like that right now? And if we fall behind…”

The Amunsan Trio were running at the front.

Although the formation had been disrupted by the large explosion, there were still countless Giants chasing after them.

“We can’t go through the main road, can we?”

“It will be the same. Since it’s come to this, we have to advance sideways, sneak through the mountain path.”

There were many routes to the ruined village from Hamina Castle.

The current road they were on was chosen because it was a “road” that had existed in the past, with flat terrain and good visibility.

They could proceed along the forest on the hillside, or even take a large detour around the hill itself and march back to the iron gate in front of the ruined village.

Among these options, the Amunsan Trio chose to advance along the hillside and through the forest.

“Taking a detour will take too long. Let’s finish it before Vantal comes back.”

The Amunsan Trio immediately gave orders to guild members. Since they were inside the armored vehicles, the Giants who had already felt their terror did not resist their orders.

However, some of the Giants who had survived and followed behind the armored vehicles, not members of the Pack Guild, bravely started running on the main road.

Of course, they couldn’t even reach 200 meters before they all turned gray.

“See that? We still haven’t found his location! But thankfully, he’s probably alone!”

“But do the Pack Guild know what ‘that’ is? There was no mention in the quest. Who could it be—”


“… There is a guy named Ha Leeha. Whatever, don’t worry about it! He might be something special in this place! We are right there!”

Some Giants who didn’t even know the existence of Ha Leeha and had no idea how this quest was unfolding wanted to ask more questions, but the Amunsan Trio didn’t give detailed answers.

The more they talked, the more they would keenly feel what had happened to them in the presence of ‘one alone.’

“We go through there! If our sight is restricted, no matter who it is, they won’t be able to touch us!”

The Amunsan Trio used the armored vehicles as cover and pointed to the forests on both sides of the road. Users who had experienced Ha Leeha even once were different. The three Amunsan Trio remembered how they always climbed up to the mast to secure their view on the ship for the voyage to the New Continent Harbor.

“Still, there will be losses.”

“No, it will be much better than now.”

“If we don’t move forward after yelling at Karelin… not only will Banthil be disappointed but the guild’s reputation will suffer.”

They exchanged glances and signaled each other.

“Move! Lean left and right! Quickly, quickly, quickly!”

“From the main unit to the 6th, lean left! From the 7th to the 15th, lean right!”

“Follow me! Those fools who don’t understand the situation just follow behind me!”

The swift movements of the front-line guild members were enough to fend off the other giants as they swiftly shifted left and right, amidst the sound of gunfire and a few casualties, they managed to reach their destination relatively unscathed.

“I already informed Karelin! We will advance from the point where our armored vehicles are stationed!”

“Okay! Let’s go! Tanks in the front! Build a wall! Move quickly between the trees!”

They started advancing with a solid defensive formation and smiled. The sound of trees being stripped of their bark could be heard in various places.

Although sporadic gunfire was heard in the background, the fact that no casualties were reported was reassuring.

“Alright, that guy is useless after all.”

Now, all they needed to do was to advance.

They were momentarily slowed down by the enemy’s strange trap, but that was it. At that moment, a ranger who was part of the Amunsan trio widened his eyes.


“W-wait! The light of the teleport just flickered!”

“What?”

“Probably… it seems like they used teleportation.”

“They went back? Ha Leeha?”

“I, I can’t say for sure, but maybe this was felt by Leeha, that the momentum of the giant at the front is starting to rise again.”

The Amunsan Trio laughed heartily and nodded their heads. Their decision was indeed the right one.

In such a dense forest, no matter how high their accuracy rate was, they couldn’t target anything!

“Excellent! There are no more enemies! Charge! The Front-line guild occupies first!”

The fact that the enemy retreated was quickly relayed to the rear of the front line, and both the Front-line guild and other giant knight units began to increase their marching speed.

It was a somewhat hurried question from the White Reaper, but Leeha welcomed even such reactions.

Even he, a top-grade NPC, couldn’t predict what Leeha would do, and the anticipation for his actions was growing.”Hmm… By now, they probably saw me teleport. If they saw the silver light, realized my absence, then all that’s left is to keep moving forward at full speed, right?” 『Wouldn’t it be more disadvantageous if they increase their speed?』

“Hehe, Shimo-nim probably tried it too. To draw enemies in the desired direction, you have to show this kind of appearance.”

『Is it that the direction you’re moving forward at full speed is the one you want?』

The White Reaper chuckled and checked the time.

“Hmm, it would be nice if we could watch together. That’s a pity. Probably… right now.”

The moment his words finished, a giant from the northern part of Hamina Castle that was moving forward touched something.

“What’s… what’s this underfoot-”

Their conversation ended there. In the hills on the left and right, a rain of ball bearings poured down.

It wasn’t just falling from top to bottom but from bottom to top, left to right, right to left, front to back… The one who could remotely control time bombs had installed Claymores in the same way.

『You have leveled up.』


While timing the conversation with the White Reaper, Leeha chuckled as he watched the light emanating from his body. 『Huh? That light-』

“Yes. It’s a bit faster than I expected. They are Giants after all. They have no fear. They might not even have any thoughts.”

Leeha shrugged his shoulders.

From the first sniper shot to the final operation of the Claymore, everything was depicted by Leeha as part of the 『Pre-Empive Attack』 operation. Why didn’t he target the Amunsan Trio immediately? Turning the armored vehicles into sitting ducks and smoothly herding them onto the side road served the purpose of confining their movements.

‘Perhaps they thought they could escape into the forest. When you enter a dense forest, Leeha cannot accurately see the Giants. But they also had to consider the opposite case.

Giants couldn’t meticulously inspect everything while advancing in a thick beech forest. Moreover, if they even saw Leeha ‘retreat’, given their nature, it was obvious that they would charge like mad pigs.

『My eyes were accurate as expected.』

“Thank you for the praise.”

The White Reaper looked at Leeha with a pleased expression. Leeha quietly bowed his head.

‘If we can strike 10% of the entire enemy forces as soon as the battle begins… it doesn’t matter how many thousands are gathered.’ Leeha remembered what he had said to Jin Gonggong. This isn’t a fight of 10,000 to 1. Even if about 30,000 Giants gather, Leeha, and Blaugrunn don’t need to handle 10,000 each.

‘It’s not 30,000. It is a single 『one』 military force.’

The mindset one should have when facing a larger force with a smaller one is to not see the lack of troops as a weakness and move boldly.

The difference between Leeha who had been preparing for war and the Giants who had rushed in without any preparations was natural.

And the Giants, at least the ordinary Giant users and knights like the Trin-Orrel Knight Order, were hardly deviating from Leeha’s expectations.

***

“Ah, we must move forward…”.

“How?! What- what will happen if something else explodes?”

One couldn’t even find a corpse. The sight of meat lumps scattered all over, transformed into light, felt surreal. Even the Giants who had raided several field boss-level monsters and conquered a significant number of dungeons couldn’t quickly erase this sight.

“Back! Move back!”

“Don’t push, you son of a b****!”

“Call for Karelin-nim! It must be relayed to Karelin-nim!”

All they could do was relay this matter to the highest-ranking administrator currently on the battlefield and await instructions. The fact that they were still standing their ground, even a bit, amidst a scene where ordinary users would have logged out, was a testament to the courage of the Giant users.

However, Karelin currently couldn’t muster the courage even for that.

“Is that really true?”

“Y-yes. The front— the front, right now… Ah.”

Feeling the blood draining from his body, he barely managed to put strength into his legs.

“Unbelievable… It hasn’t even been four hours yet…”

The momentum of those who seemed like they could pierce the sky had long disappeared. The issue was not just the momentum but the unimaginable actual losses.

The distance the Giants advanced on the first day of the battle from Hamina Castle’s north gate was a mere 4.86 km.

Still needing to cover around 1540km more, their feet no longer moved.

“Casualties- around 2,800…? How do we report this-”

In the meantime, what had been lost included all the members of the Pack Guild, including Bantal and the Amunsan Trio, three armored vehicles, over 2,800 Giants, and the rapid morale decline of all remaining survivors.

“Investigator Karelin- no, member Karelin.”

“Uh, President-nim.”

“Are you telling me to believe that?”

The investigation of the location where the White Reaper’s Ghost was now complete. Due to being relieved of his position as an investigator, the President of Shazrashian no longer referred to Karelin as an investigator.

Of course, that wasn’t important to Karelin.

“2,789 deceased. Around 100 unauthorized departures… This is confirmed.”

“Are you suggesting we just let the unauthorized departures go?”

There was no concept of injury in Middle Earth. Even those with injuries would quickly recover, so apart from death, they could be quickly reassigned to the frontlines. However, this was only related to the physical aspect.

Faced with the terror of death, some players abandoned the quest and illicitly left the battlefield, with the number reaching almost 100.

“Well, we are currently experiencing extensive morale-boosting activities…”

『…』

“Do you suggest capturing… them?”

“You. Personally.”

President Vladimir pointed his finger at Karelin, making him feel as if a gun was aimed at him right before his eyes.

“By the time the night is over, capture and execute at least 10 people. Use them as examples.”

“Understood.”

“And you will personally command tomorrow’s operation. I’ll assign a logistics officer to assist you. There shouldn’t be any supply issues, right?”

“Of course not.”

The choice of ‘I can’t do it’ did not exist from the beginning.

If not, Karelin would be immediately removed from this quest and the authority would be transferred to another player. Having the title of ‘investigator’ allowed for such authority to be passed on, which, for Karelin, was akin to a ‘joint quest’.

Ranked 12th Wrestler, Karelin had no intention of easily giving away his authority.

(To be continued…)”
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“I will not forgive failure. Ensure that I do not have to step onto the battlefield.”

“Understood, President-nim.”

Having left the Remlin Palace, Karelin immediately began interrogating Manganese users to track them down.

It was a dark night. Despite thousands of Knight Order members surrounding Hamina Castle, where the concept of logging out did not exist, it was a night where not even a single shadow could be found.

“So, they all got wiped out? Wow.”

“I heard it wasn’t just wiped out, but completely crushed. It was lucky that some were logged out at that time. People who jumped in thinking it was a job event couldn’t even recover their losses.”

“This is insane… Wait, does this make sense? Who? Only one person was there? Everyone just happily accepted the quest that could be cleared by simply pushing forward.”

Giant users preparing for a hunt at Hamina Castle exchanged whispers. The battle that took place during the day had already spread to Shazarashian territory and even infiltrated the community.

Thousands died, the Bantal and Amunsan Trio couldn’t even use their full power, Leeha summoned a dragon, it was undoubtedly the work of the Fibiel Mage Squad, the 『Meteor Strike』 magic was triggered… Rumors ranging from things that hadn’t happened yet to things that never happened were entwined with each other.

“Was it all because of some idiot who said that while accepting the quest on the community? Still, some people knew about it, including Bantal and the Pack Guild. Who was it?”

“Who?”

“Leeha.”

“Leeha? If it’s Leeha-”

“The person who killed Toon!”

The eyes of the giant users listening to their friend’s story widened. While it was like hell for the giants who participated in this quest, for those who only heard rumors or did not participate in the quest, it was just watching a fire across the river.

As the saying goes, nothing is as enjoyable as watching someone else’s fight, so it was inevitable that people would be interested.

“Wow. But no matter what, how can someone alone kill thousands of people? Is that possible? He’s not even a Ranker.”

“It’s total chaos. They’re even voting for ‘Leeha vs. Alexander’ on the community right now, saying Alexander wouldn’t be able to do that.”

“Wow, that’s crazy. But I am curious, if they fought so fiercely-”


Ahhh!

“0”

“What, what!?”

The echoing screams stirred up Hamina Castle in an instant. Users in the square also perked up their ears at the distant screams.

“Where-”

“Castle! It’s the castle!”

Suddenly, lights started pouring into the dark castle. The light magic, as if searching for a culprit with a spotlight, began scanning the surroundings relentlessly.

“What’s going on?”

“Let’s go see!”

Giant users and even the NPC lords from foreign territories started running towards the castle of the ‘administrator’, a castle equivalent to the lords’ residence.

“Everyone, step back, please!”

“Please refrain from approaching further and cooperate with the search! All citizens of Shazrashian residing in Hamina Castle, please cooperate with the authorities for the search!”

Groups of giants and a few humans, including the knight order from Hamina Castle and nearby waiting knight groups, were now in control of the users.

“Pant, pant, what’s happening?”

“I don’t really know either. I heard the sound of glass breaking, so I came to see, but I can’t hear any screams. Who died?”

“Someone died? The administrator?”

“It couldn’t be… right?”

Giant users exchanged worried glances with each other.

They were headed towards the administrator’s room. It was a fact that the glass window was broken.

Even in the dark night sky, the shattered glass window was clearly visible. Two giant users who had been conversing whispered to each other.


“This couldn’t possibly be… Ha Leeha, could it?”

“What? Ha Leeha?”

“He was known for sharpshooting from a distance, hiding somewhere to target the administrator-”

“Nonsense! Don’t talk nonsense! No matter how skilled Ha Leeha is, does it make sense to kill the administrator? How could someone target the castle in the middle of the city, how far is it to the nearby castle walls, let alone the room where the administrator is? And who would target him in the middle of the night?”

“Refrain from exaggerated rumors or malicious speech!”

“Please refrain from making baseless speculations until the investigation is concluded! Future violators may face penalties from the authorities!”

As the voices of the users grew louder, the knight order NPCs began to control the situation. Users thought it was absurd, but even with just the NPC’s reactions, they could sense the tension.

Surely, something was going on there. At that moment, Leeha was looking at his work through a night vision scope.

“Well, seems like it’s right.”

“Of course. I took Leeha-nim to that administrator or whatever.”

“Right, right. I won’t forget Blaugrunn, alright?”

How did Leeha know about the administrator of Hamina Castle? When he was once imprisoned in the underground prison here, Blaugrunn had a record of ‘running wild.’ When Blaugrunn transformed into a dragon, the castle’s administrator fled to his bedroom at once, and Leeha chased and subdued him in an instant. Later, he brought him along to release Leeha directly from the underground prison.

Recalling those memories, Leeha came here with Blaugrunn and was truly implementing the final 『Pre-Emptive Attack』 operation.

“Even if I write, they would get it, right?”

“Whatever.”

“But shouldn’t it be written in Russian? I feel like I wrote it in English for no reason. Not that I know Russian either.”

“What? What’s Russian? English?”

“Huh, no. It’s nothing.”

Leeha put the night vision scope back on his forehead and looked through the scope again.

Now that the entire Hamina Castle was illuminated, the night vision scope was no longer necessary.


“It’s absurd beyond words. If the residence of a top-ranking person is targeted, it should be covered up rather than revealed. Those fools.”

Despite being outrageously absurd, what could be done? Leeha was utilizing the concept of ‘sniping’, which was not properly operated in this era but was being used in battles. In a sense, it was an over-technology. It was natural for them not to be able to respond.

“Ah, even when I look again, it’s a masterstroke. A masterpiece.”

Leeha did not snipe the administrator of Hamina Castle.

“Even if the situation is like this, it’s not good to kill a administrator recklessly. It would be more troublesome if it backfired.”

Therefore, his chosen method was to clearly reveal the deception. The reason he sniped through the window of the NPC administrator was to shoot at the wall there, where a brief message was engraved amidst the bullet holes:

“You could be killed at any time. It’s better to keep out of war.”

The message was short, but the implications were vast. Leeha had come up with a more effective means of pressure than shooting directly.

“Let’s go back. With this, we can’t do night attacks, and it’s unrealistic to attack immediately tomorrow morning. I don’t think we can move for a few days at least.”

Although a spatial confinement barrier was active in a wide area, including the square of Hamina Castle, it did not affect Leeha, who was sniping outside the walls.

“Got it. Then I’ll teleport.”

About 2.30 kilometers west from the castle. Riding in the air alongside Blaugrunn to snipe, Leeha used teleportation as it is.

The next morning, Karelin, arriving at Hamina Castle, had to scream once again.

“Again during the night…?

With 13 unauthorized deserters caught overnight and scheduled for execution this morning, Karelin had no choice but to completely revise the plans.

Could executing deserters serve as an example? Could such an act right now have counterproductive effects?

“The, the administrator stated that he would not be able to participate in this battle and… suggested that you take full command, including supplies.”

“I see.”

Karelin sighed. Perhaps she didn’t know there was no other way from the beginning.

“I underestimated Leeha. No, Ha Leeha-nim is calling for me. Leeha, who had shown skill in handling rifles, must want to kill himself. Immediately… Prepare the Shazrashian knights for battle, staking the honor of the Shazrashian Federation.”

“Yes, yes?”

“As a member of the Shazrashian Federation government, no, as the interim supreme commander of the Winter Resource War, I command.”

The early war strategy called 『Pre-Emptive Attack』 proceeded smoothly like water flowing. Every battle and situation went as predicted. Except for Karelin’s fighting spirit!

“Now, get ready to depart right away.”

The gorilla’s furious face twisted.

※ ※

“Why do we have to meet like this when we could just use the headphones for communication?”

“Why must you be like that? Communication won’t be perfect with just that. And we can still lie even if we meet in person, right? Come on, let me whisper into my ear-”

“D-Don’t fool around like that!”

Shin Nara pushed Lark away, who was leaning in to whisper. The unofficial national investigative team tracking Faust and Igor continued their covert operations.

“Anyway, since you’ve been to Bates as well, just give me a brief update on Minis’s situation. I’ll do the same for Fibiel.”

“Are you busy?”

“N-Not particularly.”

Shin Nara avoided Lark’s gaze, staring intently at her face. After a moment, Lark nodded without looking at her.

“If you’re tired, take a break outside for a bit. The responsibility for the Fibiel’s side still falls on me as well. I can manage for a few days.”

“Well… alright then.”

“Hmm, even though I know Dame Shin, it’s hard to understand her.”

“What, what do you mean?!”

How many times has it been that they’ve had a gathering like this due to Lark’s strong suggestion? Faust and Igor have completely disappeared without a trace, making it impossible to find them anywhere.

There were many speculative hypotheses floating around, suggesting that maybe they didn’t go back to the New Continent after all, and instead of targeting dragons, they might have moved somewhere to utilize them. Both agreed to keep an eye on things for now.

“It seems like you treat me more curtly than others. Do you happen to like me or something?”

“Pfft, just kidding. Just kidding. Why are you so flustered? I know our work is tough with not much reward, but it’s a way of cheering each other up.”

Lark laughed at Shin Nara, who was making strange noises with a blocked mouth. However, Shin Nara still found it hard to look directly at Lark.

When did it start?

“I must be losing my mind for real! Why are you acting like this?!”

Something was different. No matter how hard she tried to push it away, how should she handle these strange feelings and emotions that wouldn’t go away?

‘It’s similar to Leeha but… different.’

Shin Nara couldn’t explain it clearly, but she understood it. It fit perfectly when she thought about Leeha and Lark.

“Hmm, after the Kaztor incident on the New Continent, the peacekeeping mission is wrapping up, and Fibiel is almost finished too. However, there’s a new quest recently. It might be something good since you haven’t told me about it, related to skills, weapons, or characters for getting stronger, right?”

“Indeed.”

Shin Nara replied quietly. No matter how straightforward she was, Lark always responded in that manner. She found herself uncertain about how to react to such a character she had never encountered before.

“By the way, I got a quest too.”

“What, what is it?”

“Haha! Right after you deliberately kept it secret, you’re asking about the details of my quest? That’s not fair!”

“I, it was just a reflex-”

Clang! Lark immediately tilted his head forward. The distance between the two at the table rapidly shortened.

(To be continued…)

TL’s Corner:
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“Shall we exchange information? Just between the two of us, a secret.”

“It doesn’t seem to have much value. Your quest doesn’t seem to have much to do with me.”

Shin Nara looked at Lark’s face, who was just half a step away. His eyes were sparkling.

“Well, you never know. It might be relevant. Honestly, I’m quite excited too. It seems to be related to my sword, but… it came with a strange ‘clue.’”

Listening to Lark’s excited tone, Shin Nara also made a strange expression. She had been pondering about the recent quest and the strange clue she received.

“I also met a new quest after encountering ‘Outcast Lepanto.’ It doesn’t seem easy to clear, and the method seems obscure, giving me a headache.”

“Hehe, maybe Nara-ssi, oh no, sorry for calling you Miss, it’s okay to call you Dame Shin.”

“Huh?”

Lark’s eyes widened.

“If you didn’t hear it, forget it! Anyway! That clue, it’s probably what I’m thinking, right?”

Blushing, Shin Nara lowered her head.

As her voice grew louder, Lark’s expression also started to change oddly. His facial muscles quivered as he barely held back a smile mixed with mockery.

“Heh, that’s right. What’s 『Nara-ssi’s』 name, then?”

“Se… Swift-Blade, uh, inspector.”

Shin Nara felt embarrassed to bring up her job title.

It would have been fine not to mention such a grand name!

Or rather, why does she feel embarrassed about this when she’s fine with being called Dame Shin or Nara-nim?

“Huh? What did you say? It’s hard to hear clearly?”

“Uh, swift-Blade Inspector!”


“Wow?! Wow, really?!”

Seeing Lark’s eyes widen, Shin Nara felt even more embarrassed. Clearly intending to tease her, he leaned in closer as she shrunk back, and then his eyes sparkled as he spoke.

“Isn’t it cool?! Swift-Blade Inspector. Perfect for 『Nara-ssi』! Oh, right. I heard that you used to only move around after buffing yourself a couple of times. Gotta show off to your opponents, huh. Swift-Blade Inspector. Truly the most suitable job title for 『Nara-ssi』.”

“Well, that’s…”

Usually seeming to have a profound understanding of the world, she now looked as innocent as a child, her eyes sparkling. When Shin Nara lost her words, Lark spoke first.

“Don’t be too embarrassed. I’m feeling extremely embarrassed too.”

“What are you… talking about?”

Shin Nara asked cautiously.

Lark smiled mischievously and gripped the handle of his sword.

『Dragon Slayer』, he said.

Shin Nara’s eyes widened, was he cracking jokes even in this situation? But Lark’s expression was surprisingly serious.

“Whether they want us to clear a quest with no explanation or clear method, or do they want us to fail, or want… oh! Should I just beat up Alexander? Haha!”

Even though he tried to lighten the mood with his joke and laughter, Shin Nara could tell.

Lark’s eyes were not those of someone joking around.

“Dragon Slayer…”

They were also triggered with the 『2nd Job Advancement Quest』.

However, unlike Shin Nara, whose skills and attributes were clear, Lark’s quest was triggered without anything being verified, resulting in a quite different quest format.

“Then, please help me with my quest first.”

“Excuse me?”

“You said you don’t know the clear method well yet, right? So if Lark helps me clear my quest… I’ll help Lark clear his quest too.”


Shin Nara, who had been silently observing Lark, reached out her hand first.

Whether it was simply for the 『Fibiel-Minis Joint Investigation Team』, out of curiosity for Lark’s 『2nd Job Advancement』, or for some other reason, she herself couldn’t properly understand.

Meanwhile, in another place, the 2nd Job Advancement Quest was racing towards its end.

Jachung couldn’t contain his nerves and kept looking back and forth between Ram Hwayeon and the person in front of him. The middle-aged figure with long silver hair sat silently in Castle Dale’s office.

“Division Head, no, Guild Master. Shouldn’t you ask how the situation turned out?”

“Wait, Jachung. This is the dragon that Hwajung followed the most faithfully in this game. He wouldn’t have acted recklessly.”

The actual target of the 2nd Job Advancement, Ram Hwajung, was not indoors. Arzenmacht was sitting quietly with his eyes closed, showing no sign of movement.

The two figures who couldn’t understand the meaning behind their actions showed signs of anxiety.

“What on earth is happening?”

After arriving in Hong Kong to handle office work, the Ram Sisters immediately logged into Middle Earth. However, Ram Hwajung had completely lost control due to the sudden appearance of Arzenmacht.

“If Hwajung hadn’t responded, the entire Hwahong Guild would have rushed in… Phew… Maybe Castle Dale wouldn’t have survived a major disaster that was narrowly averted 24 hours ago.”

After exchanging a brief conversation with Ram Hwajung, arzenmacht-nim sent her away somewhere.

“Are you ready?”

“I’m ready.”

“Let’s go.”

“Only… only that was it! What in the world- What are you talking about! They said to trust Leeha in Korea, but this is too much! What did Hwajung prepare for the topic she just logged into?”

Ram Hwayeon muttered, biting her lip lightly, resenting Leeha. What on earth is that dragon? A place where even the word ‘thing’ is not valid, a place where location information is not shown, where did Ram Hwajung fly off to and what is he doing?

She asked Arzenmacht, but the dragon didn’t offer any response. It was only Ram Hwayeon who realized that he seemed uncomfortable and was now at odds while offering herself.

It meant that almost 24 hours had passed in this state.

“Oh.”


“Ahem! I-is there any, anything uncomfortable? If you need something, please feel free to say-”

“Nothing.”

“Ahem.”

Hwayeon, who had rushed out, returned to her place at Arzenmacht’s word. Hwayeon glanced at the clock and asked him.

“D-Dragon-nim, I don’t know what you did to Hwajung. But probably… have you given her something to do within the 24-hour limit? So… are you feeling anxious now that time is almost up?”

Arzenmacht’s eyes squirmed nervously. Hwayeon’s eyes widened, taking a hesitant step back. The angry expression of the dragon felt just like this.

“I am Hwajung’s sister.”

But Hwayeon was different. She felt she could read Arzenmacht’s expression. It wasn’t just because her abilities were exceptional.

“I see.”

Seeing Arzenmacht nodding, Hwayeon felt a certain conviction.

‘This dragon… somehow resembles Hwajung.’

A facial expression change that didn’t fit the situation. It was because the pattern strangely resembled her younger sibling.

“If it’s not too much trouble, could you tell me where Hwajung is and what she’s doing right now?”

“Abyss.”

“What?”

“If she doesn’t come back, she will die.”

“Four minutes left.”

Hwayeon couldn’t help but have a pale face for a moment. The words she had never heard before, but she could tell they were of great importance. Above all, even if she couldn’t understand anything else, she could understand that ‘if Ram Hwayeon doesn’t return within 4 minutes, she will die’.

“W-What are you talking about!? Hwajung will die? Abyss? Where is that? How, how do you get there? Why all of a sudden?”

“It is a place that has not yet properly opened.”

“Wh-what? No, it’s not just similar to Hwajung, it’s even more intense for Hwajung! You need to explain it so that I can understand!”

“We don’t have time.”

Arzenmacht mumbled. Inside Ram Hwayeon’s head, who suddenly acquired vast information, countless mind maps were being drawn. Despite the roots of information spreading based on all sorts of words, it was difficult to extract the desired information.

She only knew of one ‘Abyss’.

At least in the Middle Earth, there was only one place with such a name.

“… Abyssal Maw? That, yes, yes, from before. It was found in the underground central part of the continent—there, right?”

“That’s right.”

“Wait a minute! Saying ‘that’s right’ and ending it like that is not enough!”

“M-Master! It’s dangerous!”

Jachung tried to stop Ram Hwayeon from rushing towards Arzenmacht, but Ram Hwayeon was not aimlessly diving at Arzenmacht.

Where was the Abyssal Maw?

What was found there?

“Bluebeard! That was where Luger discovered Bluebeard first!”

How should one handle this silver-haired middle-aged man, who threw his own younger sister into that place and lay back on his armchair as if lounging comfortably?

After Luger discovered the Abyssal Maw, many people came to that place. But as it turned out, there was only a hole painted with fresh paint, and no one could enter it, nor did anything come out of it.

However, because a considerable number of high-level monsters became ‘zoned’ on the way down there, even though it was a hunting ground for users, it was nothing more than that.

“But you can enter? Moreover, what does it mean that it hasn’t opened yet, so there’s a chance?”

What happens if ‘it opens’?

All the results that emerged from the mind map were all in question marks, and Ram Hwayeon wanted to pour it out to Arzenmacht, but she couldn’t.

“One minute left.”

“Don’t say goodbye like that! If something goes wrong with Hwajung, then you —”

“Me?”

“You. You won’t be able to leave this place safely.”

“M-M-M-Me-”

Jachung couldn’t quench the virtual flames flickering between Ram Hwayeon and Arzenmacht.

The two ‘individuals’, glaring at each other as if trying to kill each other with their eyes alone, only Ram Hwayeon put strength into her glaring eyes, while Arzenmacht sighed heavily and buried himself in his chair again

“How fun.”

“Fun? Let me show you what real fun looks like!”

“Commander Kuhyuk!”

In that moment, a bright light burst out in the middle of Castle Dale’s office. Blue light flashed quickly, but what sustained longer than the blue was a color beyond the sky blue, something white.

“What in the world is this now—” Ram Hwayeon squinted her eyes, looking at the place where the light burst. And she saw a small silhouette there.

“Woah.”

Upon hearing the sound of a sigh reaching her, ran Hwayeon wanted to call out her sister’s name. What had happened, what had she done. But Arzenmacht was one step ahead, embracing her.

“13 seconds. Good job.”

“It was tough.”

Unlike his tone towards Ram Hwayeon and Jachung, Ram Hwajung’s tone towards Arzenmacht felt so warm. Ram Hwajung even ran that was unusual for her, running into Arzenmacht’s arms. Was it like a baby bird flying to its mother bird?

“Hwajung…—” “…I mean, although—Chairman Eunji comes to mind.”

Ram Hwayeon and Jachung just watched the scene with blank expressions. Only then did Ram Hwajung turn around and report to her sister.

“Unni.”

“Ah, y-yes, Hwajung. Abyss—no, where have you been?”

“It’s done?”

“Yeah.”

『Snow White.』 It took quite some time for Ram Hwajung to notice that the blue wand in her hand had completely turned snowy white. The 2nd advancement of the Ice Mage, a user with the Snow White job, was born in Middle Earth for the first time.

“At least until today, it should be fine. They probably won’t even start a night ambush, and even if they switch commanders, it takes more than a day to complete it no matter how fast they are.”

“Then you…?” “I’ll go somewhere for just today.”

Yawning stretchingly, Leeha said to the White Reaper. In Middle Earth, a day equals about 3 to 4 hours of real time.

“I should go to bed quickly.”

Even if he manages to get some sleep, it will be more than enough to play in Middle Earth for over a week again. Once he returns, the enemy’s formation will have tightened up again. He will have to snipe at the commander level first and then stall for time again. He had already examined the Giants’ predicted advance path multiple times with the White Reaper, so he just had to survey their formation as soon as he logged in. After all, in war, one could not plan everything. He knew that things change as they live through it. Satisfied with his plan, he prepared to log out. (To be continued…)
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“All right, now I am-”

“Leeha-nim!”

If Blaugrunn had called him even a little later, ihahan would have immediately tried to log out!

“-What? Why, Blaugrunn?”

“At Hamina Castle, a massive population movement towards this place has been detected.”

“What… Giants?”

Leeha’s expression hardened abruptly.

“It is presumed to be so. I can’t even count the numbers.”

“How? No, why? That doesn’t make sense. They shouldn’t be here already, right? They can’t come!”

As Leeha questioned Blaugrunn, who had only installed a wide-range alarm magic in advance, there was no way he could explain to Leeha.

‘Over a thousand were killed in just two hours, close to 3,000 in four hours. And the supply lines are ruined. But… they are coming?’

There must still be traps galore. There’s no need to rush ahead.

For Leeha, who judged that this kind of terror dominated their minds, it was like a bolt from the blue. Although there were sections where Claymores were set up, they were literally the last line of defense, only to be used in emergencies.

“It’s dangerous. If this continues-”

『Indeed. That’s how those who flow with Krabavi’s blood are, isn’t it?』

“What?”

But the one who was surprised was Leeha instead. The White Reaper was nodding his head, gripping his rifle tightly.

『You expected them not to come, but my thoughts were a little different.』

“Oh, you expected them not to come? Then why… If you had told me, I could have prepared the operation from the beginning based on that situation.”


Leeha chuckled.

If he knew the Giants’ habits so well, rather than a direct confrontation, he could have lured them in enough and used bombs and fire to inflict even greater damage.

“The path leading up to here is even straight! Even if you’re not a fan of the Three Kingdoms, you would know – um, even though the effectiveness of fire & explosion may be reduced due to snowy terrain, it would still be enough. If I prepare flammable materials well, it would have been a tactical plan that would be enough.”

When Leeha expressed his regret, the White Reaper smiled.

『Sorry. I didn’t think in that way. I was too impressed with how well you performed beyond my expectations from the beginning.』

“Oh, no. I didn’t mean to criticize-”

『It’s okay. And if you’re wondering why I didn’t say those words… you can guess, right?』

“What? Wait!”

Swishhhh-_—- Whoaah!

Leeha covered his eyes.

The wings of the White Reaper, which were usually not visible, sparkled.

Although he had a somewhat transparent ethereal body, the wings on his back were so transparent that they were hardly visible to Leeha’s eyes. However, once the wings that started to emit light gained clarity even surpassing that of the White Reaper’s spiritual body.

『Because I can deal with it.』

He stared at the White Reaper in front of him. The only thought that came to his mind at that moment was,

“So cool…”

With the level of coolness that could make one feel drowsy, the White Reaper exploded in front of him, and his eyes sparkled.

『”You can go rest now.”』 “Haha, please don’t joke like that. Well, it’s unexpected that they’re coming a bit faster than I thought…”

He turned his head to look at the massive tactical map. The White Reaper also focused on the same spot.

“The route itself won’t change.”

『”Hmm.”』


“Blaugrunn, what are the enemy’s speed and movements?”

“They’ve approached within a radius of eight kilometers from here. Very fast.”

“Really, they’ve been running since this morning… Shimo-nim can’t leave this place, right?”

『That’s correct.』

He took out a magazine and combined it with Black Bass. With that done, there was only one thing he had to do.

Reduce the number of enemies coming to this place, even by just one person.

“Well then, I’ll be off.”

『I’ll come along too.』

The White Reaper pointed to a spot on the tactical map.

It was one of the best sniper points to counter the attack pattern expected by him and the White Reaper.

“Got it—Wha-!?”

Nodding his head, he urgently opened the door and had to leap outside the abandoned building.

“O-oh!? H-Leeha-nim! That thing right now- no, that person- that spirit!”

“Did he just scale the wall? Did he fly!?”

The White Reaper finally started to move.

Scaling walls, not walking, and flying in layers, his movement left Leeha in awe.

“So that’s how he moves! That’s why when I first came here, he avoided Blaugrunn’s magic!”

The White Reaper’s figure, which was floating and moving, gradually blurred and finally disappeared.

To Leeha’s eyes, Shimo’s nearly transparent spiritual body seemed to naturally melt into the sky. If there is a sensation of the body spreading into the background, could it be like that? By that point, it was even challenging to muster a surprised exclamation.

Hmm… Is this the effect of moving…?


『Mana Detection』… Even if I use it, I can’t see anything. Amazing. Ha Leeha-nim, you’re really amazing, aren’t you?”

Leeha and Blaugrunn looked at each other with round eyes. It was clear that both of them were more excited than ever.

“We should show something too, right?”

“Ha Leeha-nim has shown various things so far, but honestly, nothing is more surprising than that.”

“Th-then! We should do something now. Let’s go quickly.”

Leeha hastily spoke upon hearing Blaugrunn’s straightforward response.

Killing close to 3,000 giants? That kind of feat was not more surprising than the movement of the White Reaper.

Leeha’s stumbling words were not due to embarrassment.

“Me toooo!”

Admiration and envy. Perhaps it’s a byproduct of 『Second Job Advancement』, arousing Leeha’s expectations.

Shwaaah-!

Leeha and Blaugrunn teleported straight ahead to the 9.1m point.

The giant forces led by Karelin had approached within 7.6m.

“They’re visible.”

“Can you shoot them from here?”

“The distance is about 2.36m… Not sure if it’ll be affected by the wind.”

Along with Blaugrunn, Leeha raised his head into the air.

The distance was sufficient.

At a range of 2.310m for sniping, it was no different from when he sniped the mansion guards at Hamina Castle last night.

“You did well at Hamina Castle.”

Blaugrunn questioned this point, but Leeha had something to say.

“That was still a city. The wind wasn’t strong nearby. Even around the north gate of Hamina Castle on the first day, it was fine.”

“Hmm, the wind. I see.”

Blaugrunn looked at Leeha’s head, which was swaying incessantly.

Normally, he should have worn a hat, but now there was nothing on his head.

In the terrain where gusts of wind occurred, floating in the air meant that the wind speed was faster than on the ground.

“Not being able to repair the Harpy Hat is turning into a big problem.”

The hat that was penetrated by the White Reaper was not restored. Literally, it was as if I had applied the same effect as a destroyed item with a durability of 0 on Middle Earth, so should I keep farming?

With time running out and quests being completed, there were many excuses even below.

“Jellypong, even if you transform into this hat shape and sit on my head, it won’t be of any use, right?”

『myong? myong, myong-』

“I know, I know. Just make sure to protect my neck and head well.”

『myong myong!』

Jellypong replied, with a scarf-like item wrapped around below’s neck. While the form could be imitated, it was impossible to mimic the options.

“Phew, but I can’t just stay here. First of all, there are so many of them-”

Leeha adjusted the scope. The rapidly fluttering snowflakes appeared to move horizontally to below.

“The ground wind speed seems to be around 5 to 62/8, while here it’s over 110/5. If I had an umbrella, it would have been a mess. A wind speed enough to flip an umbrella. However, once it descends to the ground, due to the terrain’s contours, the giants will not be visible.

In the end, a fight was inevitable in this situation. Leeha pulled the trigger and looked through the frontlines.

Trying to find a familiar giant face, Leeha couldn’t see anything.

“Where’s Karelin? Who rallied them up?”

The serious and tense faces of the giants were clearly not the scared expressions from yesterday. It was an incredibly awkward and helpless situation for below, but there was nothing to be done about it.

“Let’s scare them again.”

Leeha aimed for a point much higher than the leader giant.

Although on the scope, it seemed to be aimed at users 20 rows behind the leader, attacking here would hit the giants within 5 rows of the leader.

Originally, he should have aimed the scope and barrel at the same point. But in such a unique environment, should he spend time aligning the sight and adjusting the clicks to hit a specific point?

“Since I’m not targeting anyone anyway.”

Leeha pulled the trigger again. Bang!

With a rough rifleshot, one of the giants on the left side of the third row from the front turned into dust.

Immediately pulling back the trigger, adjusting the barrel by 10, and firing once more. Then pulling back the trigger, adjusting the barrel by 10, and firing again.

Leeha fired the rifle mechanically, finely adjusting the direction of the barrel. The giants continued to fall. Leeha attacked!

Just this alone had already caused chaos in the front row. The giants in the front row were not just advancing.”Resting?! What do you mean, ‘resting’!”

“It has already been shattered!”

“Shattered? How could the frontlines, who had so much shield, be shattered? Why are they dying out so quickly!?”

The leader of the Knights NPC shouted as he ran forward.

“I, I don’t know! Anyway, we can’t recast it because we can’t use the skill as a group due to the shooting!”

The user belonging to that knightly order replied, bowing his head in the face of the threat of bullets flying from somewhere. As the leader of the NPC Knights, it was frustrating for him.

“We used over a thousand shields, how could it be shattered!”

“Because we spread it out! We spread out the shield to let Shii know-”

But there was no time to finish. The military force had exceeded 20,000, and the military forces in the rear or on the sides all wanted to protect themselves.

In the end, in order to defend against sniper attacks across the board, they had spread the shield widely, so even the attacks below that level had smashed the shield in the front completely.

The Giant user tried to argue back, but the leader of the Knights wasn’t just there for show. He shouted.

“You blockhead, each Shield is over 100,000 in defense!”

“… What? Then- the attack just now… No, because the shield was shattered with the first shot-”

Does that mean that a single attack power exceeded 100,000?

“-Does that make sense?”

It would have been better if he had just been confused. The Giant user’s face went pale as he calculated the estimated attack power below.

“Character Window.”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: Musketeer / Level: 255 (3.259%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievement: 156

HP: 9620 (6,734) MP: 3,690

Strength: 769 (+684)

Agility: 4,200 (+1,475)

Constitution: 568 (+352)

Intelligence: 410 (+284)

Mind: 248 (+150) Remaining Stat Points: 94

“But it was a good idea to focus on Agility and reach 4,200.”

Still smiling, Leeha pulled the trigger. Bullets fired off, hitting and killing Giant after Giant with each shot.

Currently, agility is at 4,200.

With all buffs applied, and even the title Shadow Hitman, which is activated when the enemies are unaware of his presence, his single shot’s attack power alone reaches 100,800. Therefore, in order to shatter a shield of 100,000, the title of Shadow Hitman had to be present!

His current attack power is only at half that level(?), but the Giants, who were unaware of this fact, became even more confused.

No matter how widely spread out and shattered, it was hard for them to wrap their heads around a single user breaking through a thousand shields with just one attack.

“Hehe, getting 0.1% experience after each kill. I’ll level up in no time.”

With the character window open, he pulled the trigger while checking the experience gain. His expression became strange. He pulled the trigger. Gunshots rang out. Experience did not increase.

“Hmm.”

He pulled the trigger again. Gunshots rang out. Experience did not increase. It was then that he realized. But just to confirm once more, he pulled the trigger.

Bang—-

(To be continued in the next post…)
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The loud gunshots rang out, but the experience points did not increase. Giants started to scatter around in search of cover, but with their massive numbers gathered in one place, not all of them could avoid the hail of bullets.

“There must be only one reason for this.”

Leeha raised his scope. There was no need to go far.

In the vast space with the giants’ jet-black bodies scattered around, there was another giant standing, looking precisely in Leeha’s direction.

“Come out and face me, lord Karelin. Your complexion doesn’t look so good, does it?”

Leeha chuckled.

The massive giant in ‘jeans’ was staring directly in Leeha’s direction. Could Wrestler dare to do that without even looking through the scope? Leeha decided to test that.

“Considering the wind speed and direction—probably—”

He quickly adjusted his aim and fired a shot. Karelin didn’t move, extending his arm towards his thigh. That was all he did.

“Tch. Didn’t even aim properly.”

The bullet was intended for his head but ended up flying towards his thigh.

Despite the interference of the wind, at least the bullet was aimed at a part of his body. However, it missed.

The question was, “Where is the bullet that should have pierced his thigh?”

Was Karelin fully aware that Leeha was looking at him? As if flaunting it to Leeha, Karelin slowly began to open his obvious fist.

“Damn it. He can’t even see the movement of my finger… how can he ‘grab’ the bullet? What kind of reaction is this?”

Karelin, with a twisted expression, dropping the distorted bullet tip to the ground, showed neither arrogance nor panic.

Watching his indifferent face, Leeha bit his lip. He didn’t know what method Karelin was using, but Karelin was fully aware of him and could perfectly intercept even his attacks.

Contrary to Karelin’s angry expression, Leeha’s face began to contort.

※ ※ ※


Karelin flipped his robe and joined the ranks. Even Leeha, who had been observing him through the scope, almost lost sight of him for a moment due to his speed.

The reason he avoided was not just because Leeha’s bullets were terrifying.

“I inform everyone! There is only one sniper on the enemy side, it’s Ha Leeha! I, Karelin, will deal with Ha Leeha, so the rest of you don’t have to worry and just keep advancing!”

As he raised his voice to get the halted troops moving again, the giants grumbled.

“But – if we run rashly like that—”

“Run. It’s an order.”

Somewhere, a voice of discontent burst out, but Karelin didn’t even look in that direction.

The absolute rule dominated by the logic of power.

The expressions of the Shazrashian’s Giant users were gradually hardening. If the person in charge of the event quest came out like that, how should they react? Should they gather together and rebel? Should they advance only if safety is secured after confirming Leeha’s death? However, Karelin didn’t even give them the luxury of thinking about what to do.

“Knights, aattack-!”

“Ahhhhhh!”

At the thunderous roar, the Shazrashian’s Knights 1480 all took a firm stance.

He had been leading the users from the beginning and had positioned the NPCs who were to protect the NPCs beyond the center rear. Of course, there was a ‘kind’ explanation that it was to protect the non-resurrectable NPCs, and since all the users understood it, it was a viable arrangement.

But Karelin had a different thought.

“From now on, anyone lagging behind the Knights will be… all cut down!”

For a brief moment, all 20,000 troops closed their mouths.

They were so overwhelmed by the audacity of Karelin’s statement that they couldn’t even speak.

“W-What are you saying! Karelin!”

“This is outrageous! It’s tyranny!”

“Don’t you know we’re Rankers!? Why are we going crazy, risking our lives in this measly event quest! We all enjoy fighting, but this isn’t fighting! Why risk our lives in a quest where we could just walk and die!”


Discontent poured out like a dam bursting. In an instant, the outpouring of grievances was such that Karelin couldn’t possibly hear them all.

But Karelin didn’t care. He had never intended to listen to their words from the beginning.

“Anyone who is dissatisfied, step forward and speak up.”

Just one word spread like ripples on the water’s surface. A quiet yet resolute voice enveloped Karelin’s surroundings, and the silence spread like wildfire, dominating them in an instant.

“As long as I am in charge of Leeha, none of you will die. So run. And remember, this is not just for me! Please remember that this is for all of us.”

Karelin’s thighs swelled as if they were about to burst.

Ta-a-a-ng-…! With a gunshot, one Giant fell. It was a Giant wearing a robe similar to Karelin’s.

“Knights, fulfill your original mission! Charge, all of you!”

With a single word, Karelin shouted and shot out like an arrow.

“Damn it, they all look the same, but who is who after all-”

“Ha, Ha Leeha-nim, they’re moving again! And over there! Over there!”

“Where? Where!?”

Leeha frantically adjusted the scope’s magnification to examine the overall situation. There was no need to ask who the lone figure standing out from the massive giant army rushing like a swarm was.

“Damn it-”

Leeha hurriedly adjusted the magnification and clicked, but it was no easy task. The thought that crossed his mind as Leeha pulled the trigger was regret.

Karelin, running low like a rugby tackle, was too fast for him to chase even with the scope’s maximum magnification.

With the distance between them barely two kilometers, it was only natural.

“The wind interference is bothering too much- too fast! Does that big guy look faster because he’s crouching down? Optical illusion, right? Really?”

Gunshots and distractions only echoed in his mind. The bullet had hit the ground long before Karelin had even reached it.

“B-Blaugrunn! Hurry! Stop them! Slow them down!”


“My magic isn’t ready yet?! If they come a bit closer-”

“Aargh, we can’t wait for that!”

“No, they’re not running towards us! It seems like that giant intends to ignore us and keep running!”

“Damn it!”

Leeha and Blaugrunn were not directly confronting the giant. They were in a position overlooking them at an angle, allowing them to breathe a sigh of relief and strategize.

Upon hearing Blaugrunn’s shout, Leeha finally grasped Karelin’s intentions. Karelin was charging forward in a tackle-like stance.

“Are they going past us- straight to the ruins where the White Reaper’s Ghost resides?!”

Leeha tried to read his thoughts. Why would he do such a thing?

‘Even if we see it coming, we can’t guarantee dodging Shimo’s attack. Above all- the quest doesn’t clear with just one person! Then, the meaning behind that action is-‘

Leeha realized that Karelin intended to lure himself towards the ruins. It was a ploy to make him move towards the ruins, facilitating the giant army’s advance right before their eyes!

Leeha was confident he had read Karelin’s thoughts. So, the strategy was to counteract accordingly!

“Blaugrunn! Go back and inform the White Reaper of our situation here, then block their expected occupation point!”

“What? Can I go back alone?”

“We still have 15 minutes of 『Levitation』 left, right?”

“Well, that’s true, but-”

“After 15 minutes, I will use ‘Partner: Attendance’, so you go first!”

“Got it!”

Sending Blaugrunn ahead to prepare for the worst-case scenario, I, on the other hand, vowed to kill one more high-ranking 1420 in this place without Karelin.

“Even if I don’t know about Karelin, he must be someone in a high position. Him falling means the command structure on their side is simplified. If we kill any other senior officers in the current situation, the command structure will shake again.”

Slowing down the enemy’s pace was the primary goal. Blaugrunn immediately used teleportation.

When the dazzling light of enlightenment shone, Leeha saw Karelin through the scope. The reason they could see the Giant Army from the sky was that there was no cover between them and Leeha.

In other words, it meant that there was a clear line of sight between them and Leeha.

How would the dazzling light of the Northern land look?

“That crazy bastard?!”

Karelin saw the dazzling light of enlightenment and understood its significance. He wasn’t running forward to lure me into ruin. He suddenly changed direction and ran toward Karelin.

A giant in ‘Steel Tights’ was rapidly enlarging in the scope.

“Ah, aah!”

In a hurry, Leeha adjusted the aim and pulled the trigger.

Although it was a shot taken in haste, I was born a natural sniper. I accurately predicted Karelin’s assault trajectory, calculated the ballistics, and the bullet flew towards that spot.

The only variable was the wind. The bullet grazed about 1.50 meters away from Karelin’s body due to the strong wind.

Despite the disappointment in his eyes, Leeha saw it.

“Huh?”

Karelin, who was rushing in for a tackle, suddenly made a motion as if trying to grab something beside him.

“What…? Trying to catch the bullet?”

It was the bullet that flew about 1.5 meters away from Karelin’s body.

Considering the speed at which Karelin was coming and the direction in which the bullet was moving, there was no reason to defend against this attack, which didn’t need to be caught.

Reaching out his hand towards the bullet that didn’t need to be caught?

“Why?”

I was puzzled. Is it just going to be enough to feel threatened and give up? No way. When feeling threatened, one should rather shrink back.

So what now?

“Damn it, Jellypong! Let’s get down, anyway, let’s go down! Through those trees! Vertical maneuver!”

『Swoosh, whoosh!』

However, there was no time to contemplate that. A strong sense of danger loomed. The battle that started at a distance of 2.6km between the two parties had already brought Karelin to a distance of 900m.

If he activated 『Partner: Retreat』, he could immediately return to Blaugrunn’s side. If he used 『Partner: Summon』 to summon Blaugrunn, there might be a chance to confront Karelin.

“What a waste.”

But now, he wanted to confirm this sense of danger. If he couldn’t leave this place now or solve the problem with his own power, there was a possibility of being controlled by Karelin indefinitely. Before it was too late, at the very least, he had to get some clues.

“Hiyaaa-!”

“J-Jellypong, quickly!”

Shwooaaak-!

Finally, Jellypong’s arm grabbed onto a nearby conifer branch. Like a rock tied to a slingshot, Leeha’s body was dragged along.

“Stop!”

“Aaaah! Who would stop just because someone tells you to stop! Karelin, you fool!”

Frantically rummaging through his bag, Leeha lit a bomb. It was a small emergency close-range bomb, but its firepower was undeniable.

Kabooom— The explosion radiated flames around. The black smoke temporarily reassured Leeha, but it was short-lived.

“I got you!”

Through the smoke, Karelin’s figure emerged. In a low tackle position, he suddenly leaped into the air for a moment.

“Aaah, aaaaah!”

He felt like his stretched arms were elongating, almost like they were growing in Leeha’s perspective. Fortunately, Jellypong’s maneuvering was by no means easy.

Swoosh!

Jellypong executed a vertical maneuver through the trees, with Karelin chasing after him like a vengeful spirit. About 56 meters away from the ruins where the White Reaper spirit resided.

The second 1:1 showdown between Leeha and Karelin had begun.

(To be continued…)
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“Jellypong, get back!”

『Myong!』

The internal gases of Jellypong, which enveloped Leeha’s upper body for three-dimensional mobility, squirmed inside.

A strange sensation even through the body armor.

As if feeling like worms wriggling and spinning their bodies, Leeha’s body slowly rotated. The direction of movement was clearly forward. Indeed, when it came to movement, Leeha entrusted everything to Jellypong and his body faced completely backward.

“What”

Karelin, who was running on the ground and raising his head to check Leeha’s condition, froze his expression.

“Kahaha, you didn’t know about this!?”

With the close distance of about 30 meters, there was nothing for Leeha to hide. At this distance, there was no way to avoid it. No need to adjust the scope. Just one thing, point the muzzle at the enemy and pull the trigger!

Bang!

Karelin quickly maneuvered to evade as if he were expecting it. But the gunfire didn’t stop. This time, they were not standing still facing each other. There was nothing threatening Leeha.

As long as Jellypong’s mobility didn’t stop, they could maintain the distance without getting closer.

‘It means only I can attack! At this distance, no matter how fast you are, one shot will definitely hit!’

Leeha’s attack progressed fiercely. As both were moving quickly, precise aiming was not an easy task. So, his successful evasion was attributed not only to his physical abilities but also to Leeha’s misaiming.

However, it was different when it came to catching the bullets. At that moment, Leeha watched carefully.

How does one catch the bullets? In what pattern can they be blocked? What is the enemy’s response when the bullets make contact?

“One more-”

“Ha Leeha, do you think you can win?!”

“Huh?”


“Even now, our forces are closing the distance! If you can’t handle one, no, even if you handle me, you can’t defeat us!”

Karelin spoke firmly as if struck by something. Leeha saw through his intention to delay the attack.

“Well, you never know!”

“Mi-ra”

Bang’!

“Ha Leeha, just stop it.”

With a dismissive wave, he pretended to be calm. However, Karelin even caught that bullet. As his expression turned even more fierce, as if about to say something, a flustered Leeha opened his mouth first.

“I’m not sure if I can beat you! There are not many in this world who can be confident of victory!”

“Well, then why—”

“But there is one thing I can be confident of, you know?”

“Is that so? Gaining honor? Satisfaction of fighting against the Giant’s 30,000 army? Praise from other players?”

“Huh? No, it’s not like that! What’s certain is—”

Leeha yelled at the top of his lungs, “—the fact that I can make sure you don’t win!”

Leeha couldn’t guarantee victory. Victory doesn’t come solely from one’s efforts. Leeha knew that effort does not always lead to victory.

Besides individual effort, there are countless variables at play. Leeha was prepared to accept the result based on those factors. But preventing the opponent from winning was different.

“What the—”

Karelin looked at Leeha with a face of disbelief. After crossing his arms for a moment and shaking his head, Leeha spoke again.

“I need to make sure you don’t win! Even if it doesn’t lead to my victory! That’s all I can do! And I will do my best at that!”

In a fight, doing one’s best ultimately means destroying 『the enemy』. It was Leeha’s attitude to focus solely on that task, regardless of whether it would result in victory.

Karelin’s expression changed somewhat subtly upon hearing Leeha’s shout.


… He didn’t expect them to see eye to eye from the beginning…

However, his expression was not entirely engulfed in anger.

“I find you more likable than I thought.”

“Hehe! Then how about helping out with the next mission to take down the Shahzarian Public Enemy! Even though we are allies by name, what about pride? I, as the Lord of Fibiel, am doing well enough there, you know? But in Shahzarian, the trea—”

There was a smile with acknowledgment towards Leeha.

On the contrary, it also meant that Karelin no longer intended to confront Leeha with the statistical advantage of 30,000 to 1.

“The price of teaming up with a Human Flesh Hunter is not cheap! The price must be paid, let’s go!”

“Hehehe, that price will only be paid up to this point! Next time, it means you have to help me! 『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”

Karelin accelerated abruptly, while Leeha unleashed a skill to block him.

Although Leeha wanted to summon a terror spirit and land a precise shot, it was not the right time to use it due to a one-hour cooldown time and a consumption of 40 mana.

Pwohahaaaa—_

“Oh no!”

A total of 42 bullets were fired. Karelin hastily changed direction, but the range of over thirty shots was wider than expected.

“If it’s this distance, no matter how fast he moves, he’ll be hit by at least 5 shots! Blocking won’t- hm?”

Leeha could only see afterimages. Karelin’s arms moved so quickly that Leeha could only see afterimages when he caught the bullets.

Yet, the strange thing was the number of afterimages.

“Eleven times?”

Karelin moved his arms eleven times. Did it mean he caught eleven bullets?

“No matter how many, it wouldn’t be a range of more than eight shots, right?”

It was at least 5 shots and at most 8 shots. Assuming the maximum, why did he catch three more?


“Stop, hey, hiccup!”

“Oh no!”

There was another strange thing. Karelin suddenly slowed down, but he rammed head-on into a tree trunk that Leeha had moved on. Karelin displayed a tremendous force that broke the tree trunk and then started running again, but it was clearly strange. His speed had slowed down, and the action of ramming into the tree seemed to have shortened the distance, from just under 400 meters to 450 meters, to 50 meters in an instant.

“You said we wouldn’t be able to win, but do you know how much time we’ve gained just with this game of cat and mouse? Our forces have already reached point 3!”

Leeha: Blaugrunn, what about the giants? Blaugrunn: They are 2.56 meters away. The human’s ghost seems to be completely battle-ready, and even my detection can’t catch him.

Leeha: Damn it, they are fast indeed.

With no interference detected, the giant forces were clearly moving at an incredible speed. Although Leeha and Karelin’s hide-and-seek game hadn’t been long, they had already reduced the distance by more than 56 meters.

“Just because you get there doesn’t mean it’s the end! The battle is-”

Leeha aimed at Karelin.

He needed to confirm what he was thinking once again.

‘Jellypong, a little lower.’

『Myongmyong.』

Karelin’s speed noticeably slowed down. And compared to when floating in the air, the speed of moving on the land was even slower. If he descended a bit more to get closer to the ground?

“The wind speed is 40m/s, and the distance with Karelin is merely 602m. No rain.”

This should be sufficient. Leeha pulled the trigger.

At that moment, Karelin flickered his right arm to the side as if stretching it out. His expression twisted and then relaxed in an instant, but he did not miss that scene.

“You can’t hit me. It’s easier to just give up.”

“Hehe, indeed. You’re quite impressive. Well then, I’ll have to run away, right.”

“Let’s meet at ‘that place’, Karelin!”

He activated the 『Partner: Retreat』 skill.

Inside Leeha’s mind as he returned, a voice echoed.

Ram Hwayeon: Hwajung succeeded.

Leeha: Oh, ran Hwayeon? Success? Second job change?! Ram Hwayeon was the first to inform Leeha of Ram Hwajung’s successful second job change.

Upon hearing Ram Hwayeon’s voice, Leeha also had something to share. Shoowaaaah…!

As the dazzling light flickered and Leeha disappeared, Karelin ran a few meters further.

“Shimo-nim! White Reaper-nim!?”

“It seems they’re not coming out. We’ve reached what seems to be the expected location. Even if people from the same side come, this human doesn’t respond. I feel like-”

“No, seriously, where are you? Did you just evaporate?”

Blaugrunn was dissatisfied in their own way, while Leeha was anxious like himself.

Due to the Giants’ rapid advance, there was a need to strategize for the final sniping points and routes. At least, there were areas where claymores were set up. Therefore, to lure one more Giant to the target area, decisions needed to be made regarding the direction of the snipe, who to target first, and who to shoot first.

The basic rule for snipers is to eliminate the enemy without revealing their position. However, as evidenced by the fact that the White Reaper makes gunshots, this is not always the case.

“Location Tracking is not an incredibly advanced technology. Even if not a sniper by trade…”

If there is a Middle Earth user who has military experience, they can roughly estimate the distance. This also applies to finding the angle of impact. Calculating the time it takes for the shot to reach its target and the time for the gunshot to reach. For Leeha, it was a basic level of automatic calculation without needing to think further but generally required considerable training.

On the contrary, if there is a user trained to a decent degree, working out the sniper’s distance with Location Tracking is not a difficult task.

“So we need to talk! What’s going on here?! Weren’t we supposed to head towards this point?”

Initially, he headed towards the point while flying in the sky, but the White Reaper was nowhere to be seen.

Suspecting, he circled through all the snipe points and returned to the starting point, but still, the White Reaper was nowhere to be found. Not visible, he couldn’t find the White Reaper even after searching the surroundings thoroughly. Even though he tried to engage in conversation, there was no response, and no reaction whatsoever, driving his almost crazy.

“The 2nd point is breached! Massive mana detection 1.86km ahead of the iron gate! It’ll be visible to the naked eye too!”

“Oh man! I believe in you! You’ll handle it fine! Sergeant Kim told me to trust you!”

It wasn’t meant in that way, but now it couldn’t be helped.

“Blaugrunn, guard the place! I’m off too.”

“Do you really need me here?”

“Yes. But if Blaugrunn intervenes, things might go awry.”

“Huh? What do you mean-”

“Ah, there could be some trouble. Just focus on guarding. I’ll make sure no one gets through.”

After patting Blaugrunn’s head, he headed towards another sniper point he had discussed with the White Reaper, who was also known as the first one to discuss Ram Hwajung’s second job advancement.

“Second advancement of Ram Hwajung, 『Snow White』?”

He had heard a detailed story about Ram Hwajung’s second job advancement from Ramhwa Yeon.

Ram Hwajung cleared a quest alone at a place called the ‘Abyssal Maw’, returned triumphantly, and successfully achieved the second job advancement without anyone else’s help.

“Yeah. In a way, that’s true. Building your skills is up to you. Finding keywords about your traits is also up to you. But pulling those keywords out probably falls on me.”

However, that’s where it stops.

Even when it comes to keywords about traits, he can only assist in ‘pulling’ them out. Ultimately, who is responsible for carrying out the missions assigned to them?

Undoubtedly, the responsibility lies with his. In that situation, would Midlir’s intervention be forgiven?

There was even a possibility that intervention itself could lead to an impossible situation.

“Even if Blaugrunn is my partner, it’s no good. Even if I try to party-play to stop this situation, who will join my party?”

Will Kijung come too?

Not many from Starry Initiation would show up. Or rather, it is awkward for his to call them in the first place.

Although Leeha himself is a quest target and does not suffer from chaotic numerical penalties due to interactions with giant users, what about them?

If he kills giant users without dying, he will be labeled as the worst murderer in Middle Earth, with his chaotic numerical value skyrocketing exponentially, making it impossible to operate properly even in Fibiel. This is how it goes.

“With Middle Earth controlling the situation like this, testing only the individual’s skills is the true essence of the second job advancement. Then I shall accept it. Tap, tap, tap.”

The first sniper point found by Leeha was their complete frontal view. Once guarded by the Giant Vigilants, they stood by the iron gate, the upper part where Leeha took a knee.

“No matter how hard I fight, I can’t kill them all. Eventually, they will make it here.”

They were already at a distance of 1.7km. In less than 10 minutes, they would open the iron gate and rush in. He had to stop them.

“Huuu…?”

He checked the wind direction and speed. As he was adjusting the scope, the sound of gunfire finally rang out.

(To be continued…)
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Thud———–…! “Whoa?! What the-”

The direction from which the sound came was clear. Despite turning his head to look, Leeha still couldn’t see anything.

“There was no one there earlier, it seems- No, is that also the ability of the ‘White Reaper’? Along with the ‘White Reaper’s first shot, the footsteps of the giants began to slow down.

“Come to think of it, that’s an interference, interference, isn’t it?”

Leeha chuckled and surveyed the group of giants.

The target of the White Reaper was the giant at the forefront. Then where would Leeha aim?

“Dividing the enemy. The ‘Firewood Swing’ tactic of the real Finland, where the souls of Paldrin meet the people of reality to reproduce, is a real Finnish tactic.

‘Multi-Warhead Shot.’ Multi-Warhead Shot was aimed at the very center of the giant army. Starting from that point, Leeha indiscriminately fired bullets towards the left and right of the enemies.

※ ※ ※ “Jin Gonggong said there were about 20,000 to 30,000 troops, and Karelin said there were about 30,000.”

Leeha wondered how many troops he had taken out on the first day. And how much of what Karelin said was true about the enemy. It’s unlikely that the enemy gave him an honest number. So the number of 30,000 troops itself might have been inflated.

“If it was around 25,000 at first, between 2,500 and 3,000 died on the first day. With the remaining troops, there are around 20,000 left. Even if you factor in more casualties, it’s around 23,000.”

The number of troops in front of me was so large that it was impossible to estimate.

Because Leeha couldn’t count them in units of thousands or tens of thousands, he had to assess the situation through logical reasoning.

Fortunately, it seemed that his estimate was almost accurate.

“We can’t even see the troops at the very back. Let’s slow their pace for now-”

As if agreeing with Leeha’s thoughts, the gunshots of the White Reaper continued to ring out.

One by one, as the giants fell, the troops at the forefront began to drift to the sides. The central area where Multi-Warhead Shot was fired was no different.

Or maybe even thinking of that area as the ‘center’ was underestimating them.

“There are still plenty more at the back, so let’s give them a taste too. 『Multi-Warhead Shot』!”


Multi-Warhead Shot consumes a lot of mana, but it has no cooldown. Since the presence of enemies was confirmed through the initial shot, the ‘Shadow Hitman’ title did not apply, but each shot had a damage of about 35,000. If a single person were to be hit by all 42 rounds with 35,000 damage each, they would have to endure a total of 1.47 million damage.

“Multi-Warhead Shot!”

Of course, unless Leeha was fighting against Bluebeard or Dragon-class enemies, there was no need for that. He set the range of Multi-Warhead Shot as wide as possible, spreading it out at regular intervals.

When the precise sniping of the White Reaper and the bombing-like skills of Leeha poured down, the giants couldn’t even move. Watching them scrambling left and right to find cover, Leeha nodded.

“It’s impossible to kill all of these guys anyway. No matter how many rounds I have.”

Like dust sprinkled at regular intervals on a freshly snowed road, the giants’ bodies were scattered all over. Bullets rained down. Merely shooting guns wouldn’t be enough to kill over 20,000 people.

Therefore, the tactics of Leeha and the White Reaper were relatively effective ‘so far’. Finally, the giants disappeared completely from the main path.

“Now, it’s the first one. 『Soul Link』! Kidd, transform now!”

“Krrrr!”

“And Jellypong?!”

『Myong?』

“Merge with Koma. If it gets dangerous, come back immediately.”

Holding in his hand Jellypong that had been wrapped around his neck, he threw it towards Koma. It was something he had always wanted to try at least once.

While it might not be possible for regular water and fire to merge, these two were—

Spirits.

Jellypong and Koma hesitated for a moment. Nonetheless, once the command was given by Leeha, they had no authority to rebel against it.

“Myong, !”

“Krr, KRAAAGH!”

Looking at the two mystical creatures rushing towards each other incongruously, Leeha smirked.

“Haha…”


That was the extent of his laugh. Leeha’s mouth began to open slowly.

“Be careful around the approaching giant when you return.”

“Krrrr—Myongmyong.”

Behind Koma now transformed into a water spirit, tentacles like a spider’s legs protruded from Jellypong.

It was no longer an elemental, nor was it a beast or a bear.

Rather, it leaped from the iron gate, possessing an appearance more akin to a chimera created by Ghibrid.

The giants hiding in the forests on both sides breathed a sigh of relief, knowing that they were no longer targets for sniping. In order to save their lives immediately, they moved recklessly. They hardly noticed the transition from being a part of a large force to a medium-sized unit, and then to a small group.

“If it’s a joint operation between Koma and Jellypong, there should be no problem with the firewood splitting. After grouping the enemy into smaller units, the basic tactic of disintegrating them called 『Firewood Splitting』 started to take effect. Moving straight to the secondary sniping point, they headed towards it. Within 30 minutes of the Kidd’s activity, they could easily destroy several groups.

Adding the power and protection of Jellypong, they could easily handle around a hundred intermediate-level opponents; and considering the chaos there, they might even be able to confront a thousand opponents.

“But when that time comes… No, perhaps before that time, the probability of Karelin showing up is high.”

At this moment, Leeha was the most wanted target of the giants, the only person who can stop this giant invasion. And they were looking for him. At the same time, Karelin, who was included in a small group at the rear of the force, was also watching the position where Leeha might be.

“K-Karelin, soldiers in the front are reporting that a strange monster has appeared! They say it’s impossible to handle, a bear? Spider? An unidentified monster using fire and water attributes skills!”

“Oh… What now?”

Karelin witnessed the scene where Leeha and the White Reaper were fighting, but he couldn’t confirm Koma’s identity. Back then, Koma was running towards the abandoned building where the White Reaper was summoned, naturally out of Karelin’s sight on the hill behind.

And what about Jellypong?

At that time, Karelin couldn’t even fathom that the ‘Fake Leeha’ he saw was actually Jellypong in disguise.

‘Summoning a dragon isn’t enough, receiving assistance from dragon’s magic… and even seeking revenge? What kind of job grants such skills? What on earth is his occupation? Shooting, but with magical attacks, no connection to dragons yet able to summon them skillfully.’

‘He seems like a combination of Alexander and Lee Jiwon.’

“What??? N-nothing at all. Phew… First, contact everyone. Advise them not to recklessly expose themselves.”

“But if we just stay still, everyone will systematically be attacked by unknown monsters one after another!”


The sporadic gunshots belonged to the White Reaper. The groups attacked by the joint operation of Koma and Jellypong urgently requested help from nearby groups, fearlessly crossing the main road, or attempted to join them, becoming easy prey for the White Reaper.

“And after forming a defensive formation, prepare to strike again-.”

“Uhm, just to clarify – how many of them are split up right now… and being able to pinpoint who is where…”

Knowing roughly where the enemy was, but ironically becoming unable to figure out their own position! Without being able to determine where to contact or who is present, even if Karelin said ‘make contact’, it was impossible to do so. Karelin was infuriated by the ignorant behavior of the giants.

“Can’t you contact the squad leaders! Contact each squad leader, have them form a defensive formation, deploy a camouflage curtain using skills to lead the users to follow behind, so hurry and make contact!”

“Yes, understood!” If sacrifices have to be made to come this far, so be it. Even if allies are used as ‘meat shields’, they must push forward by any means necessary! “If that doesn’t work either.”

Karelin gritted his teeth. In the end, there was no one else but herself who had to step up. Karelin, who was flexing and relaxing his body with clenched fists, was already prepared for this. Contrary to the bewildered users, the Sha’zrasian knights advancing from the rear were solid like a fortress wall.

“Left foot! Left foot! Left foot!” In front of the united forces of the knights with a single formation in sync with the northern call, there was a massive shield. Literally taller than the giants and larger than their physique, a row of shields erected, with human barriers stacked on top using skills like Barrier and Fortress.

“It is an emergency shield, but… it should be enough to block Leeha’s bullets. Compared to the armored vehicles shown by the Bantal and Amunsan Trio, the War Machines, although not superior in terms of assault, siege, or mobility, Karelin was confident.

“This time, I will definitely catch him.”

If he focuses only on defense and can transport troops, he can handle the attack directly. He couldn’t help but open his mouth at the looming giant wall.

※ ※ ※ “What the heck is that?!” Before the panic could set in, his hands reacted first. The transparent effects of Wild or Barrier skills extended up to 60 meters in height from the ground. What the hell have they done – these crazy freaks! “Thunderbolt!”

The Body Shields advancing by using skills up to a width large enough to fill a main path and a height of about 60 meters were so gigantic that they would be hit even if fired randomly anywhere. The problem was that aside from briefly staggering, the shields had no other reaction.

“Since the Shadow Hitman title is not applicable, there’s no way it would work with just one shot. In that case, 『Multi-Warhead Shot』!” With a total of 1,003,705 and now shot four rounds of Multi-Warhead Shot and small ones, there were only about 140 MP left after this skill use. Even considering the naturally replenishing MP, it would be unrealistic to use more skills. Therefore, he opened the character window and invested the points into mind. After confirming how the 42 bullets were being guided, he didn’t regret this investment at all. Bang, boom boom bang, boom-! The sound effects of the attack power totaling 1.47 million nullifying the attacks weren’t particularly loud. He shut his eyes tightly.”Wow, what a scam.”

It was different from the last time when he broke through with a shotgun. The defense level was overwhelmingly high, thanks to the skills of the knights’ orders, far superior to the users’ barriers, and all orders participating in this quest had joined forces.

“The skill stack. Not individual shields. Combining all shields into one and blocking in only one direction.”

Should I summon Blaugrunn?

Koma’s summoning time has only about 10 minutes left. The initially split ‘firewoods’ at the front had already caused many casualties due to the onslaught by Koma and Jellypong, trying to escape but getting picked off by the sniping of the White Reaper.

Although a considerable number of giant creatures at the front had already been defeated, the speed at which the giants behind the massive wall advanced was relentless. Before anyone knew it, the giants who had set up the wall had already approached Sector 9007. Considering the speed of Koma’s progress in the chosen direction and their advance speed, it was dangerous.

“It’s risky. If Koma or Jellypong jumps in that direction for no reason—dangerous.”

Where should the wall be broken down from?

If all defense was concentrated at the front, could it be toppled from the sides?

Ironically, facing the Assault-Type Armored Vehicle and Amunsan Triowas much easier. They required a driver and power, a large device with windows for the driver to see through. Unlike waiting for an opportunity, the shield walls fortified with all skills due to the nature of Middle Earth could only be described as a pure concentration of power.

“I wanted to leave the last line of defense, but in the end, I couldn’t help but lower my head.”

If one cannot fly with their own power, shouldn’t they rely on external strength?

-Blink-

『Nothing has changed since the Winter War. No, nothing has changed since coming here after the Winter War.』

“Ah, you startled me! Can’t you show at least a little presence?”

Leeha, who was about to call Blaugrunn, was startled by a sudden sound coming from beside him. The White Reaper floated in the air and stood beside Leeha. Since Leeha had acknowledged that he couldn’t take down the enemies at the initial sniping point, Leeha also quickly tried to make a decision.

“Don’t worry. I have a partner. Once we get rid of the stacked shields—”

『Oh, seems like you didn’t fully understand what I was saying.』

“-What?”

『The enemies haven’t changed. They used that method several times in the past.』

“So, you mean they can’t be taken down with sniping… Wait, you mean they did that before?”

Leeha chuckled. How many times did they use the method of advancing with shields enduring over 1.5 million damage? Then why could the White Reaper’s Ghost come back to life? The White Reaper smiled warmly, yet there was a hint of sadness in his expression, for some reason.

(To be continued…)
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『Opportunities come only once. Should I leave everything else to you after this?』

“What… what are you talking about? What opportunity?”

『Look closely. At least if you are someone who will continue my name- you should know how our Paldrin’s weather is like- kaa-』

Shaaa——! Light began to emanate from the body of the White Reaper.

Along with it, his silhouette, enveloped in light, began to transform. Leeha saw it. The rifle connected to the White Reaper’s Ghost was also completely fused with his arms, made of soul.

It was no longer something like the Mosin Nagant. The White Reaper’s right arm had turned into a weapon boasting an enormous length of a rifle.

“Eikon…”

『Long ago, there was someone who taught our people the proper way to use firearms. I have somewhat recreated the techniques and records left by that person-』

“What? The use of firearms- no, records? Ah! Ah!”

The basic rifle in the world of Middle Earth is a musket.

Why did the White Reaper have a rifle beyond a musket? Light began to gather in the White Reaper’s right arm.

“Just a moment! Could it be- Could that person you mentioned be- His name-”

『It’s strange. Even the records of the techniques passed down, no one in our nation has even received his name. Only… it is said he was the marksman. And this technique is a very small fragment that he left behind…』

“Marksman!? I knew it! So that’s it!”

Why did the White Reaper’s Ghost seek out his own people?

What was the reason why the Paldrins wished for them to come here? In a way, they were another form of Dark Elves.

“《Arcane Sniper》!”

Another nation possessing the records of the Arcane Sniper.

However, it was not just about possessing the records, but the nation believed in developing and applying them to suit their needs.


『Tracking and reflecting all eyes and ice, a single bullet to kill the enemy, 『White Reaper』.』

“What is that?”

“Light… what skill is he trying to use now?”

After the joint knights orders of the Shazrashian Federation created a Body Shield and started charging, Giant users who had hidden on the sides of the main path could safely follow behind them.

Karelin, who had been advancing with the knights at the rear, was also observing the light.

Slightly to the left of the frontal iron gate, at a spot where the boundary watchtower was built in the past, white light was gradually intensifying.

“White light? Could it be the dragon from back then?”

Karelin remembered the monstrous dragon summoned by Leeha. If Leeha were trying to summon it for something?

“No, back then Leeha didn’t showcase the dragon’s power. They just summoned it and that’s it. It might have been just an imaginary dragon.”

It could be something that only appears as an illusion without substance. Karelin, unlike his formidable physique, possessed a soft and flexible mind. As one of the users working for the Shazracian Federation government, having such thinking ability was natural.

While Karelin and other users remained silent, chaos erupted among the NPC knights.

“R-run, we have to run!”

“It’s an Human Flesh Hunter! There’s an Human Flesh Hunter!”

The NPC knights not only caused a commotion but also started retreating, even throwing down their shields.

“What’s happening!? Who’s retreating without permission, knights!”

“Sir! Th-that’s not it! That’s the Human Flesh Hunter’s technique!”

“We have to run, especially on a snowy day like this! We’ll all die, oh, gods!”

Karelin hurriedly chased after them, trying to stop their retreat, but the 1200s couldn’t calm down even as they fell to the ground.

The names they shouted spread quickly to the surroundings, and many 100s started to panic.

“Human Flesh Hunter?”


“Didn’t they say he’s dead?”

“H-Ha Leeha mentioned it, right? Isn’t there Ha Leeha here? If it’s the Human Flesh Hunter – then they must be the one who completely wiped out our knight squad’s communications!”

The murmurs grew louder. Karelin bit his lip.

From the beginning of the speech, the Shazracian president had not said a word about what was here. Even if there was something, the order was simply to advance towards it. Of course, now that all the users participating in the quest knew about it, it was still all they knew.

Except for a few individuals like Karelin, most people were unaware of the fact that there was ‘someone else’.

The decision to hide Ha Leeha’s name was to avoid alarming those who were in awe of his reputation, but was there a more resounding name present?

Was the Human Flesh Hunter a name with such strong power among the NPC knights?

Shouldn’t they have avoided hiding it from the start?

“The snow is falling! It won’t stop!”

“The surroundings were covered in ice, ice, and snow-”

“It’s here! The Human Flesh Hunter are coming, no, the 『White Reaper』 are coming!”

At that moment, a light erupted from the front left of the giants.

Despite furrowing his brow, Karelin did not turn his head.

A tingling sensation as if the pupils were burning in the light, yet as one of the responsible parties for this war, he had to watch the attack of the ‘Human Flesh Hunter’.

A laser?)

Then he had to despair.

The light was not just erupting. The emitted beam of light aimed at the united frontline knights’ barrier.

Below, even the White Reaper were watching the scene unfold.

Strictly speaking, what the White Reaper’ skill, 『White Reaper』, shot was not directly at the barrier. It was the ground a little further ahead of them.

As soon as the laser hit the snow-covered ground, it dispersed.


The dispersed laser hit the snow piled on the nearby branches, turning into smaller branches.

Even hitting a single snowflake falling from the sky caused it to split.

It hit the ice on the puddles, scattering.

Just after a single laser shot, it almost instantly became uncountable.

No one could perfectly predict the formation of tens, hundreds, or thousands of other laser beams disappearing in less than a second.

“Ah…”

It was beyond spectacular.

White Reaper.

And White Reaper. What emerged from the hands of NPC possessing the same level of skills, honours, and titles was a masterpiece.

Then a question arose: “How could you only kill 542 in 100 days?”

『Who said that? Ah, those Krabavi bastards might have reduced the numbers.』

It felt more credible that they had killed 54,200 instead of 542.

Why did the Giants of the past Middle Earth try to erase the name of the ‘White Reaper’ while using the title of ‘Human Flesh Hunter’?

How great was the fear instilled by that name itself. Leeha once again realized. The vanguard of the giant formation, which felt like moving a massive wall forward, was already in a state of collapse. The effectiveness of stacking shield or barrier skills could only be demonstrated when targeting the vanguard knight’s division of NPC and the gigantic shield he held. It was impossible to block attacks from all directions, not just horizontally and vertically, but in all directions, preventing both planned assaults and random counterattacks.

“Is it over?” 『No, it can’t be over.』 “What? Just a moment ago… If you use that skill one more time-” 『Haha, didn’t I say? In my current state, I can only use it once.』 Leeha closely observed Shimo’s face. Although there was a hint of a smile, he certainly looked more exhausted than a while ago.

“Is your soul tired? Or perhaps, is your existence fading away?”

When starting the quest 『Revived White Reaper』, he mentioned that his existence wouldn’t last long. Maybe his current skill wasn’t just consuming NPC but utilizing a certain energy to maintain his soul.

Suddenly, Leeha felt urgent.

‘It might be related to the Arcane Sniper. And the content could be much more detailed and sophisticated than the Dark Elf village.’

Who are the Paldrin? How are they related to the Arcane Sniper? They said the records and techniques remain, but the names are forgotten. If one is a Arcane Sniper user, it must be related to the countless encounters with ‘extinction’. What about firearms like the musket? Could it be related to the ‘Arcane Sniper’s rifle’ with skills embedded? And the skill shown by Shimo just now?

“Arcane Bullet… A reproduction of the technique itself. Or, as Shimo put it – ‘Childishly’ reproduced.”

There were more questions than answers. At this point, one cannot simply let him disappear forever. And the one with the restless mind wasn’t just me. If Leeha slaughtered users, the White Reaper executed the NPC Knight Order, and the irrevocable penalty for not being able to resurrect would squarely place the responsibility on the commanders of this war. As the user in the most criticized position by the president, their minds were even more restless than Leeha’s.

“Karelin…?”

Leeha saw Karelin walking alone towards them. Karelin already seemed prepared for battle, yet his expression was not that of an enraged gorilla. It was more like he was trying to hide his urgency with a calm demeanor. As he left footprints in the snowy field, Karelin gazed at Leeha and the White Reaper standing there.

“Ha Leeha!”

“Karelin, it’s over now. Further slaughter is meaningless-”

“I know!”

“…Huh?

While Leeha was taken aback, Karelin had already finished his rough calculations.

“We lost.”

The war was over. With a single unknown technology, the entire Giant Knight Order fell. If they were to rush madly while carrying the corpses of their comrades, would barely five people be able to reach their intended occupation site? ‘The dragon didn’t even appear. Ha Leeha only used the dragon once to escape from the Lemurian Palace.’ Leeha’s full strength has yet to be displayed. And even if Karelin used such a strategy, it would have been difficult to evade Leeha and the White Reaper’s sniping, and overcoming the well-prepared Blaugrunn would have been even more challenging. Additional casualties must be minimized. He knew that maintaining order and gradually retreating with formation was the best approach. However, Karelin couldn’t retreat. He felt that taking a final gamble was better than shouldering the immense responsibility that would fall on him and surrendering.

“Therefore, I will not call this a battle for victory. It is not a confrontation, it is a negotiation. As it would end if Leeha were to shoot me. To put it bluntly, it was a loser begging the winner and losing even the last dignity.”

“What? That’s nonsense-”

“We fought twice until now! And I won both times, didn’t I? I know that war and battle are different, but I can’t retreat like this!”

Karelin nearly lost his temper. However, since Leeha had retreated twice in their previous encounters, it was a skillful maneuver based on nonexistent facts.

‘Indeed… to become a member of the Shazrashian Federation, you need such eloquence, right?’

Leeha looked at him. He could somewhat understand Karelin’s position. How angry he must be. How unjust he must feel. He would definitely think that he had been defeated without being able to unleash his full potential.

“What are you going to do?”

“I have adjusted the zero points. If I pull the trigger, it will all end, but…”

Karelin grabbed the trigger but did not pull it.

“You mentioned something to me from the beginning.”

“Right.”

“Instill that name in their minds as a symbol of fear… To do that, I shouldn’t retreat, right?”

『Avoiding a losing battle is also a way.』

While the White Reaper was saying so, his tone was light. Leeha smiled at him.

“You’re saying that even though you don’t really want me to retreat. Anyway, well… They have that kind of style, those… people who shoot guns.”

“What, what do you mean?”

“Hehe, I’ll be back. Jellypong!”

『Myong-!』

Koma disappeared, and Jellypong, who had been slowly returning towards Leeha, quickly rejoined him.

(To be continued…)
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Leeha jumped down from the watchtower and stood in front of the iron gate. Then, he shouted towards Karelin, “I’ll accept your proposal. However! If you lose this one-on-one fight, all the giant forces must retreat immediately, and you must take responsibility and arrange a negotiation between me and the President!”

It wasn’t simply because he succumbed to Karelin’s provocation. It was the only way to end the 100-day war before the 100th day. To receive the President’s agreement, Leeha needed to ‘completely’ overpower Karelin.

Karelin’s expression slowly twisted upon hearing Leeha’s declaration.

“You’ll regret those words.”

“You know that the one who wins the final bout is the real winner, even if they lost the previous two?”

Leeha, too, retorted and lifted the Black Bass.

He shot real bullets at Karelin, who was charging like a bullet. Karelin tackled in a light fighting stance, naturally catching the bullets with his outstretched hands. This wasn’t surprising to Leeha, as he had experienced this several times before.

“You got it!”

“You can do it, Karelin-nim!”

“Damn it, what happens to our quest now?”

Giant users began to gather around Karelin. They, too, perceived how the situation was unfolding. If even Karelin lost to Leeha in a one-on-one duel, no giant here could defeat Leeha in a fair fight. Even though countless giants had been killed, there were still over ten thousand troops. However, those gathered here were already demoralized.

Could they charge together with united strength? If that was possible, they wouldn’t have gathered under Karelin’s command.

The fear of the White Reaper’s attack restarting at any moment. And Karelin, considered the strongest among the giants here, engaging in a one-on-one duel. These two factors suppressed their actions. Karelin, having created this atmosphere, could focus on facing Leeha without getting ambushed.

During this time, Leeha shot three rounds, but Karelin caught them all. He even had the leisure to flick the caught bullets back at Leeha.

“I’ve faced you multiple times. I’ve roughly grasped Leeha’s skills now. The monstrous unknown from the beginning has vanished. But somewhere, there will be a defensive or biological item. As long as I’m cautious of that. And if the dragon doesn’t intervene.

‘I’ll win the one-on-one!’

Karelin charged with more force.

Now, the straight distance was less than 100 meters, yet Leeha continued to repeatedly shoot his gun.

“It’s done! Soon, Karelin will be within attack range!”


“Once he’s caught, it’s over! He’ll die instantly without any resistance!”

Giant users quietly cheered. Knowing their position, they couldn’t shout, but their eyes were fixed on Karelin and Leeha. Karelin was no different; he had fought twice and won twice with the same pattern.

“Wildly flying bullets! As long as I’m careful of those, I can win!”

Even as the distance narrowed to within 50 meters, Leeha showed no signs of moving. He mechanically pulled the trigger and fired repeatedly.

Karelin’s lips moved slightly. There was no doubt Leeha was a formidable user. He surely had powerful attack skills and abilities. But Leeha should have avoided this match.

“He probably thought he had won, but that arrogance will be his downfall-”

Karelin looked at Leeha. Leeha was holding the Black Bass. But the way he supported it was different from holding it with his left hand and pulling the trigger with his right.

The Black Bass was supported by a stabilizer protruding from Leeha’s waist. And the trigger was pulled with his left hand. Then what about his right hand?!

‘Whoosh!’

Karelin caught the bullet flying at him.

‘-So?!’

No, what he caught wasn’t a bullet.

“What- This is?”

A black-bladed dagger. Karelin gripped its blade, feeling a sharp pain in his cut palm.

『All mana have dissipated.』

Leeha lured, lured, and lured Karelin. He tediously showed and re-showed the same pattern. For this one shot.

“Hoo, to push a wrestler’s technique to the extreme and turn the 〈Grab〉 skill into 〈Absolute Judgment〉… that’s really impressive. I didn’t even know something like ‘Absolute Judgment’ existed.”

Clunk!

“But without it, this is the end, Karelin. Don’t move.”

Karelin’s steps came to a complete halt. Leeha slowly backed away, increasing the distance between them.


“If you move, I’ll shoot.”

“What nonsense-”

Karelin charged.

However, when he grabbed the dagger thrown by Leeha, perceiving it as an ‘attack’, his mana reached 0, disabling his skills.

Seeing him now moving significantly slower, Leeha lowered his gun a bit.

Boom!

“Arghhh!”

The bullet pierced between Karelin’s ankle and calf, causing his body to collapse. Rolling once on the ground, the ranked 12th wrestler , a famous user and a member of the Shazrashian Federation’s government, spat out blood-like words.

“This is ridiculous! If I had just caught you- if I could only catch you!”

Karelin flailed, reaching out his hand. The giant users found it hard to even watch this scene. Leeha also furrowed his brow slightly and spoke to him. It was a pitiful struggle.

“Karelin, that’s not the right direction.”

“-Damn.”

This was why the giants could no longer bear to watch Karelin. He was reaching out in a direction away from where Leeha stood.

As it was Middle Earth, where immediate death or critical hit judgments existed, the damage varied depending on the hit location.

Just as Kijung excelled with his ‘tanking’ stance, there were specific areas that had to be effectively hit.

And the lower calf area was typically a spot where damage was halved.

“One hit…”

“That too, to the leg.”

“Has his vision been blocked?”

One shot aimed at that spot turned Karelin’s vision completely red. So much so that he might have lost almost all his HP points, making it impossible to see ahead and bringing him close to death.


The morale of the giants, who were expecting either an evenly matched fight between Karelin and Leeha or Karelin’s overwhelming victory, plummeted to zero and beyond.

The White Reaper watched this scene with a smile.

“Hoo, hoo… It succeeded.”

Leeha was smiling but it was a complete façade. However, it wasn’t because he was nervous due to the gamble of this battle.

Facing the ‘King Kong’ that charged ignorantly despite knowing the strategy itself was nerve-wracking.

‘You shouldn’t have chased me during the second fight.’

The uneasiness Leeha felt from Karelin was during the second duel. Leeha saw Karelin’s unnecessary movements towards the multi-warhead shot.

Even though he caught the bullet, he still acted unnaturally towards trees and bushes.

“If he had to 〈reflexively grab〉 any attack within a certain range against his will, and not completely nullify the damage but take part of it… that assumption turned out to be true with Ram Hwayeon’s information.

When Leeha heard the second job change news of Ram Hwajung, he requested all information about Karelin from Ram Hwayeon. And since Karelin’s skills were relatively well-known among the rankers, that information immediately reached my ears.

“The 〈Absolute Judgment〉 ‘Grab’ skill for any attack within range. How can a human react to the speed of a bullet?

Of course, he can’t.

The Middle Earth system guided Karelin’s body to move that way. Although he had a feature to ‘grab’ every attack, he couldn’t control his body himself. After obtaining that information, Leeha could study the strategy against Karelin.

He must have trained extensively to achieve ‘Absolute Judgment’. But ultimately, if it’s a skill, it can’t escape the influence of mana.

Just like how practicing sniping a hundred thousand days on end wouldn’t allow Leeha to use a curve shot without mana.

Leeha rummaged through his bag, took out a healing potion, and handed it to Karelin.

“Take this.”

“… I don’t need your pity.”

“Huh? Oh no, not pity. You need to take responsibility. Drink this, regain your strength, and lead the giants back. You also need to arrange a negotiation with the President. There’s a lot you need to do; if you stay like that, it’ll trouble me. Hehe.”

Karelin turned his head towards the direction of the voice. Leeha clearly saw the face of a completely stunned King Kong.

“To say that now… I feel like snapping your neck. If you would allow it-”

“No matter what I say, I believe you wouldn’t act irresponsibly. Quickly drink it.”

Leeha didn’t make this decision thoughtlessly. Although it’s a nation without a hierarchical system, there’s no place like the Shazrashian Federation that values honor and status.

Karelin, holding a significant position there, wouldn’t charge after the duel ended, or so Leeha thought.

Above all, it was possible because neither Leeha nor Karelin genuinely hated or resented each other.

Karelin angrily gripped the potion’s neck and downed it. The anger was evident to Leeha, but Karelin was still an adult.

“From this moment, the 〈Winter Resource War〉 quest is over! Responsibility for the clean-up will be handled by me, Karelin, through a meeting with His Excellency the President. All users and knights, please return. The post-management of this place will be handled by Hamina Castle.”

Karelin shouted this to the giants, then turned back to face Leeha.

“Is it over now?”

“There are still some final discussions left, but it’s pretty much over.”

“I hope we don’t see each other as enemies next time.”

Karelin gave a bitter smile. Leeha nodded vigorously.

“Same here. Oh by the way, as I mentioned before, could you help me later with the Shazrashian public affairs tasks?”

“Is that something you say to someone with a mountain of things to do?”

“What’s good for me is good for everyone! I’ll help you too, Karelin!”

Leeha smiled and gently patted Karelin’s body. Karelin exhaled a sigh and shook his head. However, a few moments later, a positive hologram window appeared before Leeha’s eyes.

“Then I’ll return first. I’ll notify you once I’m ready.”

“Okay. Thanks. Now that we are ‘friends’, don’t think about running away. Haha.”

Karelin was the one who initiated the friend request to Leeha first. He soon used a teleporting orb to return to Shazrashian’s capital.

“Now… Giants? It’s time for all of you to leave.”

Whoosh!

Blaugrunn approached Leeha in his round. He lifted both Leeha and the White Reaper into the air.

“I’ll give you 15 seconds. I won’t take responsibility for those who remain here afterward~!”

As Leeha thrust the Black Bass forward, a bright white light started converging on it.

“Oh no! The White Reaper- It’s his skill!”

“Run! It’s that skill from the Human Flesh Hunter! Run!”

Giant users and even the NPCs hurriedly took out their orbs and began fleeing. During the time it took for the orbs to activate, they looked anxiously at Leeha. The increasingly bright white light appeared ready to shoot at them any moment.

“Hurry! Why is this damn orb so slow!?”

“It’s growing! It’s growing! It’s-”

Simultaneously, pale blue lights sparkled from all directions.

Leeha used 〈Mana Clairvoyance〉 to check again for any hidden users or NPCs.

“None. Alright. You can remove the 〈Light〉 now.”

“Seriously… You only call me for these strange tricks. At least tell me the reason.”

Blaugrunn grumbled. The white light gathering in front of the Black Bass was merely Blaugrunn’s magic.

However, the giants, who were terrified and scarred by the white light, had no leisure to distinguish it.

『Hahaha! That was a funny trick!』

“Shimo-nim, you recognized it, right?”

『Of course. Just like when you summoned a bear clad in the Fire Spirit’s aura and when you put glasses on a being with the Water Spirit’s energy, I saw all of it.』

“W-What? You can see all of that? Not just the wind?”

Leeha’s eyes widened. At that time, when he planned to use a double decoy, he had already been seen through entirely. 

‘That explains it! Not aiming at Bahamut, and not being fooled by the spyglass… it’s all because he can see beyond the substance-‘ While Leeha marveled, the White Reaper’s lips curved into a gentle smile.

(To be continued…)
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 791

				
Arcane Sniper 791

『Don’t underestimate the White Reaper.』

“Ah, no. I wasn’t underestimating-” The White Reaper extended a hand as he spoke.

『This is the name you’ll need to remember from now on.』

Leeha stared at the semi-transparent spirit’s outstretched hand for a moment before grasping it.

“Gah! But I can’t grab it!”

He was startled as his hand passed through thin air, causing the White Reaper and Blaugrunn to burst into laughter.

『Ha, hahaha!』

“Pffft! Ha Leeha-nim can’t touch spirits! Only spirits can touch Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Seriously, teasing me at a time like this?”

Leeha looked at the spirit and the dragon with a puzzled expression.

‘Come to think of it, I haven’t even tried using that fixed wind terrain.’

It was certainly an absurd and chaotic quest.

However, he could distinctly feel that the quest related to his second job change had reached a conclusion.

I have reported everything to the President.

Great! When should I come?

You can come now. By the way, Ha Leeha-nim, 6,541 Giants were killed by you and the White Reaper. Since our initial participants were around 28,000, you fought nearly 25% of our forces.

Hearing Karelin’s whisper, Leeha was once again astonished.

He estimated that he had dealt with about 3,000 Giants himself.

Then the remaining 3,000?


“The 〈White Reaper〉, 〈White Reaper〉… indeed. You’ve earned nicknames comparable to the Black Death.”

Leeha, with a perplexed look, ruffled Blaugrunn’s head and pulled out an orb.

“Then, lord Blaugrunn, I’ll be back. Since we won the war, we must hold the defeated nation accountable.”

『Understood.』

“Ha Leeha-nim, I told you not to touch my head! My head- my head-”

Swoosh! ꙼ Leeha and Blaugrunn teleported simultaneously.

In front of the main gate of Larin Palace.

They were just two, but the dignified march of the victorious side left countless Giant guards unable to lift their heads.

“Can I… go inside?”

Leeha asked the Giant guards with a wide smile. The same guards who once gave him a near-dismissive treatment when he came to meet Karelin.

“Of course! I mean, ah-”

“His Excellency is waiting for you, Ha Leeha-nim. Lord Karelin will be out soon, so please wait here for a moment!”

The Giant guards, fumbling over their words, barely managed to convey their intentions. Leeha chuckled upon hearing this.

‘Indeed. Even though my public reputation is negative… the quest completion results are already reflecting positively?’

These were not users, but 1448s.

The reason why the national guards of another country were so nervous was a reflection of Leeha’s risen prestige.

Shortly after, Karelin, looking exhausted, walked out through the main gate. Leeha waved at him cheerfully.

“No need to act so friendly. It’s not like we’re long-time friends.”

“Of course I’m glad to see you, lord Karelin. You’re the one who’s going to help me complete my quest! Isn’t that right?”

Leeha playfully tapped Karelin’s arm. Karelin sighed and shook his head.


They hadn’t known each other’s names and faces for very long.

Moreover, they hadn’t even suffered or hunted together.

In fact, they had tried to kill each other like mortal enemies during that short period.

Even so, both Leeha and Karelin felt that the barriers between them had somewhat crumbled.

“Is it because you resemble Kijung Gyeong-gyeong… No, not in looks, but- do men really bond through fighting?”

Perhaps it was because Karelin’s personality reminded him of Kijung and Hwan in some peculiar way.

“Then this side is…”

“This side?”

“The, dragon-”

“Yes, a dragon.”

Karelin glanced at Blaugrunn and spoke, but Blaugrunn’s response was cold.

“Technically, a giant-”

“In my eyes, there’s no difference between humans and your species. Do you call yourselves ‘giants’ just because of such slight size differences?”

Blaugrunn, being in his current boyish form, was less than half the size of Karelin, making his remark amusing. Although Leeha chuckled, Karelin earnestly nodded.

“I see. Understood, dragon.”

Leeha wanted to laugh more at this scene straight out of a comedy, but he barely managed to suppress it, knowing it would ruin the atmosphere.

The guards standing in the palace corridors couldn’t even properly look at Leeha and Blaugrunn.

Even though Leeha was grinning, he was already a famous figure across the entire Shazrashian Federation.

Moreover, Blaugrunn, following Karelin, was ready to obliterate everyone on a moment’s notice.

‘I made the right choice in bringing him. Initially as insurance, but now it feels like the best decision.’


Bringing Blaugrunn as a deterrent to prevent a bloody situation turned out to be the wisest choice.

After passing by a reception room they had visited once before and a corridor where he had used the multi-headed shot, Leeha finally arrived at a door.

The decorations on this door were far more splendid than any he had seen before. Karelin took a deep breath in front of it.

“Your Excellency, Ha Leeha-nim has arrived.”

Karelin didn’t wait for a response. As if everything had been prearranged, he opened the door immediately.

Creaaaak…

Finally, the door opened, and Leeha saw him.

A 48 vastly different from the Giant he had seen in a secret meeting room at the Ezwen Papal.

“Welcome, Ha Leeha-nim.”

The highest authority in the Shazrashian Federation, and one of the other 〈Kings〉 of Middle Earth whom Leeha met for the first time, except for the King of Fibiel.

The Giant, with a cold glint in his eyes and a crooked smile, extended a hand toward Leeha.

The negotiation table was filled with a palpable tension.

Attending as a representative of the ‘victorious nation’ to hold them accountable for the war.

But hadn’t the negotiation already been scrapped once?

Leeha didn’t intend to unconditionally suppress them with power.

“So… what is it that you seek to demand?”

“Yes, it’s something I couldn’t demand last time. I hope His Excellency the President will pay attention to the discrimination and human rights protection within the Shazrashian Federation.”

The phrase ‘couldn’t demand last time’ itself was intended to provoke the President.

At that time, Leeha had conveyed his intentions perfectly to Karelin, who then communicated it to the President. The President, however, ignored it and tried to suppress it with force.

The result was ‘this mess’, as implied.

“Oh, I see. I didn’t realize you were so concerned about our Federation. It seems I did not fully grasp your intentions.”

The President rolled his eyes to look at Karelin.

Karelin was doing his best not to meet the President’s gaze, staring straight ahead instead.

“Yes, that’s correct.”

Leeha remained silent afterward. The President already knew what Leeha wanted. The hope was that the other side would ‘act accordingly.’

Blaugrunn, displaying the patience typical of a dragon, remained silent and didn’t make any movements. Leeha also refrained from tapping his fingers on the table or shaking his legs, simply maintaining eye contact with the President.

“So… from our side…”

How many minutes had passed during this silent standoff? Nothing could be achieved at a negotiation table where no one spoke. And it was always the ‘loser’ who had to back down first.

Not knowing what else Leeha might demand, or what more he might ask for, was the most frightening thing for someone in a position of uncertainty.

“I believe it would be wise to accept Ha Leeha-nim’s… ‘suggested compromises.’”

Eventually, the President spoke first.

“Drafting it into a legal document would likely be a helpful measure.”

“We will gratefully accept that… advice as well.”

Crack!

The sound of teeth grinding came from somewhere, but Leeha pretended not to hear it.

Karelin glanced at the President in surprise, but soon lifted his head and stared straight ahead.

“And regarding the matter of reparations… I don’t know how to put this…”

“Reparations? What do you mean, reparations?”

“As you may know, a large number of Shazrashian Giants swarmed in and caused some waste of surrounding resources. In terms of environmental protection, I tried to mitigate this with a ‘light touch’… which resulted in some damage on my side. How should we resolve this?”

Leeha rubbed his shoulder, pretending to be hurt.

The President, as well as Karelin, looked bewildered.

“What, what nonsense are you talking about? We’re now dealing with-”

“Nothing happened between Fibiel and Shazrashian. President, I’ll say it again… this is not about Fibiel and Shazrashian. You know that, right?”

It was not a war between Fibiel and Shazrashian.

Isn’t it about maintaining the alliance?

This is an issue between individuals and groups, purely addressing the damage caused by the group to the responsible party.

“Such…”

The President’s face twisted. Karelin’s did too.

Both Karelin, as a legislator, and the President, at the L80 level, surely understood such indirect and tactful expressions.

Only Blaugrunn, who had no interest in human conflicts, sat there indifferently.

“I haven’t had an exact diagnosis yet… but once I do, I’ll send an appropriate invoice. That would be the cleanest solution, right? If you distrust ‘the invoice I send’, I could reluctantly utilize a royal physician from Fibiel for the documentation.”

It would be wise to end this as a matter between individuals and groups.

Otherwise, we can escalate it to a national issue.

Leeha’s words bordered on a threat, and veins began to bulge on the President’s forehead.

Rumble!

Once again, a sound echoed throughout the room.

Leeha could tell it was the President’s chair scraping against the floor, but he pretended not to notice.

“If you promise to uphold what I’ve said so far, protecting the environment is essential, but I’m willing to assist Shazrashian in resource development.”

There was no need to defer to the President’s will.

Showing their desired negotiation card briefly from the start was enough. With those words, the rumbling sound stopped.

The President looked at Leeha with surprised eyes.

The highest authority in Shazrashian? He was already in the palm of Leeha’s hand.

“Very well. Then let’s draft the agreement immediately-”

“Oh right! By the way, I heard that there were originally Panlinde people on that land? I am now acting as a representative for some Panlinde people… should we also discuss the 〈distribution〉 of the profits from the mines developed in the northern part of that land?”

Leeha spoke with a sly smile. The President’s expression twisted once again.

His face began to change rapidly in response to Leeha’s approach of giving a cure after a blow then striking again.

Without concern, Leeha continued.

“Since the natives have been managing the land during the period it was abandoned by the nation… it wouldn’t be an exaggeration to say they’ve been looking after it, right? Of course, they may not care much about that, but as their ‘representative’, I am here to discuss the contractual matters-”

Kaboom!

“What are you talking about! Damn Fibiel brat-”

Finally, the President exploded.

As his fist smashed down, the table shattered completely, and before Karelin could restrain him, the President charged towards Leeha.

Mana had already gathered in Blaugrunn’s hand. However, Leeha didn’t request his assistance.

It was as if he had been waiting for the President to burst, and then he calmly said just one phrase.

“〈Familiar Fear: Designate〉.”

From the tip of Leeha’s pointing finger, an ‘Uncanny’ emerged.

Though it was not visible to Karelin and Blaugrunn, the President could see it clearly as he charged at Leeha.

“How are you here…”

The President’s rage, intent on tearing Leeha’s throat, was momentarily suppressed by the presence of the familiar entity.

But the Uncanny immediately spoke.

“Do I still look like 『that』 to you?”

At that moment, the President screamed.

“W-White Reaper—!”

That was the last thing he said before collapsing forward in a faint.

“Your Excellency! Ha Leeha-nim, what is-”

“He just fainted.”

Karelin rushed to lift him up, glaring at Leeha. Leeha answered calmly, though he himself was a little surprised.

“Turning the most familiar entity into the most terrifying one… The President’s greatest fear was the White Reaper?”

Upon reflection, it made sense.

The location of the White Reaper’s vengeful spirit had been kept secret, known only to a very few.

Even after deploying large troops several times, they couldn’t retrieve it, eventually building massive fences and iron gates to ensure the spirit didn’t escape.

From the perspective of the highest authority, especially in a nation governed by the logic of power, the existence of something ‘stronger than the highest authority’ would naturally be a subject of fear.

(To be continued…)
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“Now I feel slightly guilty.”

Provoking the President with unreasonable demands wasn’t unintentional on Leeha’s part.

Karelin, as well as the Giants and 1406s who came to the north, knew the power of Leeha and the White Reaper.

But the President?

The final negotiation target had not experienced this “war.”

‘So, I wanted to give him a scare… Who knew he already feared the White Reaper?’ Thus, provoking him to escalate the situation and then educating the President properly with the 〈Terror Spirit〉.

Leeha felt a bit guilty towards the President, but one thing was certain.

He would no longer be able to refuse Leeha.

Moments later, the President regained consciousness, supported by Karelin, and barely stood up.

“President-nim? Your answer?”

Leeha smiled at him.

The President, with a completely defeated expression, answered in a voice that signified he had given up everything.

“Understood… I will accept Lord Hyha’s remarks in the name of the President of the Shazrashian Federation.”

At that moment, light radiated from Leeha’s body. Ta-da!

『You have leveled up.』

『You have completed the Revived White Reaper quest.』

『You have been removed from the Giant’s quest target list in the Shazrashian Federation.』

『Attacking Giants from the Shazrashian Federation will now incur chaotic points.』

『Mutual 0 penalties are applied.』


『You have acquired the achievement ‘Under Surveillance by the Shazrashian Federation Government’.』

『You have acquired the achievement ‘Shared Profits from Northern Continent Mines’.』

『You have acquired the achievement ‘Hero of Shazrashian Minorities’.』

『You have acquired the achievement ‘Infamous Past Spirit’.』

『You have completed your second job change.』

『You have acquired the achievement ‘The One Who Broke Free from the Egg’.』

“Wow—”

First, four achievements, then the notification of completing the second job change, followed by another achievement.

Seeing a total of five achievements pop up simultaneously, Leeha couldn’t close his mouth.

Even when he slew Toon or sniped the Bathory-turned Chiyou, he hadn’t seen this many achievements pop up at once.

“As expected, the second job change is fantastic! Haha!”

The holographic window in front of him wasn’t over.

『Second Job Change Information』

『Job Name: White Reaper』

『Job Mentor: Simone』

『You can acquire skills and growth quests related to the second job from this mentor.』

“Wow! This is it! I was worried the name might be ‘Sniper’ or something!”

“What are you talking about—”

“Ah, haha, it’s nothing.”

As Leeha jumped around in excitement, Blaugrunn and Karelin frowned at the sight.


The President could no longer deal with Leeha and tried to leave the room, supported by Karelin.

“I will notify you as soon as the documents are ready.”

“Yes, yes. That will be fine. That’s all I need. Oh, by the way, I might log out soon. When I log back in, I’ll contact you immediately. You’ll be ready by then, right?”

Seeing Leeha yawn widely while speaking, Karelin shook his head.

What kind of person is he really? When he shows a strategic and strong side, when he uses rhetoric that even ensnares the President whom Karelin admires, and now, yawning broadly and showing such a relaxed demeanor.

“I’ll prepare as much as possible. And if there’s nothing else, please leave.”

Karelin answered Leeha and escorted the President out.

Leeha said he’d leave soon but didn’t right away.

Not only because it was a rare opportunity to be alone in the office of the President of another country(?).

“What makes you so happy?”

“Why wouldn’t I be happy? Haha, I am now the ‘White Reaper’!”

The job name dictates the skills.

Leeha had predicted that he would receive specific guidance from Simone.

But under what job name and what type of skills?

“If it had been ‘Sniper’, I might not have been able to acquire certain skills. But it’s ‘White Reaper’. White Reaper!”

He surely had many other types of skills.

Even the outrageous disguise must be a type of skill. However, what excited Leeha the most right now was just one thing.

“〈White Reaper〉…”

The White Reaper’s skill, which stopped the final charge of the Giant forces with a single bullet.

Wouldn’t I be able to learn that bullet that seemed like a finishing move?


“No, it’s not a ‘might’! I am the White Reaper now! If I don’t shoot, who will?”

〈Achievement: Infamous Past Spirit (5)〉

Congratulations! You have inherited the name of one who was notorious in Middle Earth’s past. Some will call you a murderer crazed with blood and slaughter, while others will become fanatical followers of your power and name. However, one thing is certain: Both will acknowledge that you possess strength and greatness akin to the ‘past spirit.’

Infamy has been handed down to you. How you use this infamy is entirely up to you.

Reward: 25 stat points

Increased likelihood of being revered by those with positive evaluations

Increased likelihood of being targeted for overthrow by those with negative evaluations

〈You are the second registrant of the Infamous Past Spirit achievement. The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with an additional 200% effect applied to existing effects.〉

Effect: 50 stat points

“Haha, at least to the Shazrashian Giants, I am a notorious… Huh? What’s this?”

Leeha was ecstatic, examining a fifth-tier achievement, when he suddenly paused.

The White Reaper is a hero to the Panlinde people.

According to Middle Earth’s settings, he fought for the oppressed people, but was undoubtedly a colossal murderer.

What puzzled Leeha wasn’t referring to the White Reaper as the ‘Past Spirit.’

“Hall of Fame… second registry?”

You are the second registrant of the achievement Infamous Past Spirit achievement.

Achievements related to Shazrashian might be possible. It doesn’t have to be a second job change.

However, the Infamous Past Spirit and The One Who Broke Free from the Egg achievements are clearly linked to a second job change just by their names.

“Of course, the One Who Broke Free from the Egg achievement is given to all users who succeed in their second job change. So that might not put me in the Hall of Fame. But this… what is this?”

The achievement’s description makes it clear.

You have to inherit the name of a notorious figure from the past.

Other users’ second job changes will also be related to 48s.

However, whether they perfectly inherited the baton from past figures is uncertain, even to Leeha.

Is there anyone among those who completed their second job change so far?

“Alexander, Kijung, lam Hwayang—Ah! Ah!”

There is one person.

What if the 18() that guided them to their second job change disappeared?

That user might inherit the name related to the second job change’s core keyword.

‘Chiyou… what a troublesome opponent. And being revered or targeted? How do they know who evaluates me? Affinity? Honor Points? Or overall reputation?’

The fact that he didn’t even fully grasp the potential of the achievement and that it might be held by the most difficult enemy pressured Leeha.

“Ah, it’s good, but also kind of frustrating. Lord Blaugrunn! Let’s go back.”

“Understood. To the place where that human spirit resides?”

“Yep. I’ll report back and then take a rest—”

-Hyung? Busy?

Leeha’s plan was to log out after informing the White Reaper that everything was over.

However, Kijung’s sudden whisper caught his attention.

-What’s up, Kijung? Got something urgent?

Leeha’s mouth curved into a grin thinking about what Kijung might want to share.

“Maybe it’s something good.”

He smiled broadly, but then a mischievous thought struck him.

“Hey, don’t send me something weird! If you think I’ll appreciate that, I’ll give you high praise~?”

-What are you thinking? It’s not something weird! Anyway, I’ll go outside and send it to you right away. And let’s talk for a bit.

When Kijung spoke with a serious tone, Leeha stopped joking around immediately.

‘What’s going on—’

“We’ll depart now.”

“Oh, yes. Let’s go.”

It’s something that can be figured out by watching the video and talking once outside. For now, Leeha teleported with Blaugrunn to the White Reaper’s abode.

Leeha reported back everything about the conversation with the highest authority in Shazrashian and the achievements gained.

“The resource development in the north… well, I didn’t get permission this time, but Lord Simone mentioned it last time… I used it as a negotiation card. If you feel bad about it, I can cancel it now.”

The part that weighed on Leeha’s mind was this.

Would the White Reaper be upset about the Giants developing the mines beyond this place?

Though he permitted peaceful negotiation initially, they later attempted to seize the area by force, and Leeha and the White Reaper barely managed to fend them off.

『No. Not at all.』

However, the White Reaper wasn’t displeased.

The simple addition of a clause prohibiting discrimination against minorities and treating everyone equally under statutory law was already satisfying to him.

“That’s a relief. I still don’t know where the Panlinde people are… but sharing the profits from developing the northern mines might… be used for Shazrashian minorities. If that’s the case, allowing the Giants to develop and sharing the profits seemed like the right move—”

『Indeed. Or rather, you’ve thought more deeply and broadly than I expected. I used to think you were just like me… but—』

The White Reaper smiled.

『You’re beyond my expectations.』
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Without hesitation, Kijung shouted, “Jin Gonggong-nim! Confirm the coordinates first!”

“Understood, 『Polymorph: Swallow』!”

“I will move according to the coordinates divided by the Corrupted World Tree Forest standard! Since the Chimera Legion is approaching, once the coordinates are confirmed, Hyein hyung, you should-”

“Don’t worry, Kay. We’ve practiced this countless times before. After safely escorting the guild members, I will immediately head to Azura and bring back the main forces.”

Hyein also stood steadfastly by holding the staff tightly in both hands, in agreement with Kijung’s decision. There had been a few reconnaissance missions before, but this was the first time they received a report that the Chimera Legion was approaching. Nevertheless, the reason they remained composed in such a critical situation was that they had conducted rehearsals based on various hypothetical scenarios.

“Great! It’s been a while since I stretched my legs a bit!”

“Hic, hikkik, it’s not something to be so excited about, Bobae-nim.”

“I’ve been so bored lately! I haven’t seen any Manticores! All I hear is weird firecracker sounds, so I thought it was time for an event soon! Anyway, if Kijung-ssi is here, we should be able to handle it, right?”

Bobae aimed her arrow toward Kijung and pulled the bowstring tightly as she expressed her protest. For users who remembered the 1:1 showdown between Kijung and Ghibrid, the onslaught of the Chimera Legion was nothing to be scared of. Meanwhile, the real person in question, Kijung, looked around with a perplexed expression, even needing to quickly hide that.

“Luckily, it’s already confirmed that the Chimera Legion is weak against fire, so we just need to adapt to that. It would be great if Pyro-nim were here at times like this.”

“That’s true. We almost don’t have any fire-based skills on our side except for Tale hyung…”

Depending on the number, chimeras were generally monsters worthy of confrontation. With Bobae, an outstanding long-range dealer ranker, on their side, they were confident they could manage.

‘If it’s a problem, it must be Ghibrid. Should I call for Leeha hyung or even Kidd-nim from last time? Would that be fine?”

Kijung recalled Kidd fighting alone against a manticores pack. However, without knowing the enemy’s location or the sincerity of their attack, he couldn’t just summon them.

“Don’t worry too much, Guild Master.”

“Huh? Why? Do you have some secret plan, Biyemi-nim?”

As Kijung pondered seriously, Biyemi approached him. With a flick of his lizard tail, he winked mischievously.

“I heard some good news from Minis. We may be able to call for reinforcements if needed.”

“Reinforcements? What do you mean?”


“Even the 1st and 2nd rankers were not just idling around. So, we might have some help if things get tricky. Hehe.”

“I’m just grateful that there’s someone like him who shares such news.”

“What- What are you talking about? Alexander? Lee Jiwon? Why are they involved? Someone said there’s some news?”

The recent activities of the top 1st and 2nd rankers had stirred up a lot of talk not only in the community but also within Middle Earth. Their sightings were not reported on the Main Continent, and even though it was said that they were stranded on the New Continent, with a considerable number of users widely dispersed there, the news was still unheard of. Nevertheless, Biyemi was different. Unlike ordinary users, the ‘informants’ he contacted had a slightly better information network than regular users did.

“Hikikit, since it’s something a top ten ranker told me, it’s somewhat trustworthy, right?”

“T-Ten? Who-”

“Petyr!? Biyemi-ssi! Are you still in contact with that unlucky man?”

Amidst Kijung’s head-shaking confusion, bova was the first to interject, immediately identifying the user that Biyemi had contacted and questioning him.

“We were briefly allied during the voyage to the New Continent! What’s good about associating with a guy who’s involved in the assassination quest of King Fibiel!”

“Thanks to him, I heard the news. Kit. Love and Peace, Bobae-ssi.”

“Well, anyway… They say he’s good with words.”

When Biyemi sharply stated, Bobae couldn’t argue any further. However, Biyemi wasn’t someone who blindly followed Petyr, despite being a character who had previously deleted her. In fact, if we were to talk about negative feelings, Biyemi’s feelings towards Petyr were much stronger than what Bobae felt. Wasn’t it he who had caused Biyemi’s previous character to be deleted? Yet, Biyemi occasionally exchanged messages with Petyr and he, in turn, sincerely listened to the opinions of the person who had caused his character to be deleted, and even offered help. It was a conversation exchanging truths mixed with lies and truths uncovered by lies.

“So you’re saying we can call Alexander and Lee Jiwon? Phew, at least a little relief-”

“Coordinates confirmed! It’s at the 36th point at the southern end of the Corrupted World Tree Forest. Near sector A-065!”

When Kijung let out a sigh of relief, Jin Gonggong who had transformed into a swallow returned.

“Confirmed! Hyein-hyungnim! A-”

“I’m already working on it, Kay. And it’s not the coordinates of sector A-065 I need to draw. Please be quiet for a moment.”

“Yes, understood.”

Upon hearing Jingeong’s call, Hyein was already in the middle of drawing the magic circle. Splitting the area into alphanumeric sections, horizontally and vertically, was indeed Hyein’s idea.

TL’s Note:
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It was meant to separate the defensive and scouting ranges, but it was only useful for ‘non-experts’, as Hyein, a spatial expert, needed precise coordinates rather than vague units like sectors.

“When I see Hyein, I feel lucky to have chosen a Venom Mage”, said Biyemi.

“Really. Even Druid’s flora and fauna affinity work is far easier in comparison… Ugh, calculating coordinates is annoying. What’s with using vectors and all that? They say the Sage job class has fewer options.”

Watching Hyein work, Biyemi and Jin Gonggong nodded uneasily, and in that brief moment, Hyein had already completed the magic circle.

“We’re ready. Everyone-”

Clang!

“Let’s go!”

Without needing Hyein to say anything, the Byulcho moved as one, and as the Sage’s staff touched the magic circle, they all disappeared.

“As always, the Byulcho. If Kijung didn’t call me, Jin Gonggong must have already given the message. But why is Biyemi talking about Alexander and Lee Jiwon…?”

Leeha diligently observed the scene.

Perhaps the reason Leeha wasn’t mentioned in the conversation of Byulcho was because Kijung had already whispered to him. When was this video recorded?

Possibly, due to his spreading ‘notoriety’ even beyond the Shazrashian Federation and into the communities, Kijung and others might have known Leeha’s status even without any special words from him.

Of course, that wasn’t the most important thing.

“I see a Chimera. Oh, there are so many?”

In the video, the amount of food in Leeha’s palm was enough to feed a flying lizard.

“Hyein-ssi!”

“I’ll be back soon!”

Hyein carried the Byulcho towards Ezwen Paladins. The sapphire blue light flickered, and at the same time, a command as sharp as lightning struck from Kijung’s mouth.

“Bobae, Biyemi, start by understanding the numbers and distribution of the Manticores! Jin Gonggong-ssi, confirm the movements of the Chimeras! Tale, lead the Paladins to establish a defensive barrier using fire-based skills!”


Listening to Kijung’s orders, Leeha felt a surge of emotions. No one could underestimate Kijung now.

While outside of Middle Earth, trivial jokes were being exchanged, inside, Kijung presented a more trustworthy tank than any other guild master.

“We’ve confirmed the number of Manticores to be twenty-two! It’s increased by six since the last count.”

“Hmph, it seems like Ghibrid are diligently recovering its strength, and those cursed Manticores are positioned right at the front and center.”

Bobae and Biyemi frowned. Though Ghibrid were slow, it was evident they were steadily recovering their strength.

The increasing number of Manticores was a cause for concern. The addition of just one Manticore wasn’t a significant issue, but the repercussions in terms of the number of Chimeras were immeasurable.

“Chimeras… we can’t count them anymore. Even if we estimate conservatively, it has exceeded tens of thousands.”

“Hah, you said we couldn’t count them, yet you’re counting so fast.”

“Th-that’s… um, well, yes. That’s how it is. I can feel it.”

Although he couldn’t know for sure, Jin Gonggong, who had seen the Chimera legion count go from under two thousand to over ten thousand near the Corrupted World Tree, sensed the difference.

Just recently, while patrolling near the first infected forest, where the Star Sage was first contaminated, the Chimera legion numbered less than two thousand, but now it crossed the ten thousand mark.

“Though we’re not certain about Ghibrid’ exact location, if over ten thousand Chimeras are passing by, there’s no other choice but for them to go through this plain.”

“If they can’t use the tactic of moving in small units, then there are only two passages they could use in the future, including this one.”

“Having fewer defense points to cover is advantageous, but…”

Listening to Jin Gonggong’s analysis, Tale pondered. It would indeed be a happy occasion if they could concentrate their defense forces in one place. However, what if the enemy forces are far greater than imagined, and each individual soldier is also stronger?

“Bobae! Prepare to snipe the Manticore!”

“We can aim for one at a time at different distances, but they need to come within at least 110 meters! And as you know-”

Twinkle…

“Ki, Kikit! Everyone, take cover!”

Upon seeing a distant light, Biyemi shouted.


Unlike Bobae, he had spotted its location from the beginning and was solely focused on it, making his reaction possible.

Boom! With the explosion, dust sprayed up like a fountain.

Being elite members of the Byulcho, they could barely dodge such a fast and powerful attack.

“It’s not safe because of that thing!”

“The Chimera Legion is coming at us! The Manticore is also in stationary flight!”

“Damn it! Are they really planning to take us all out this time!”

Bobae and Jin Gonggong confirmed the enemy’s movements.

Kijung knew too. Last time, they managed to retreat thanks to Kidd’s actions, but this time was different.

The monster, Luger, a Manticore Ghibrid with far superior learning abilities than the regular Manticore that was specially created by Ghibrid, was not moving.

“It seems they are aiming correctly this time. Kay, we need to call everyone we know.”

“We have to. Everyone, gather behind me!”

Kijung called out, holding up the shield of Toon. In a standard artillery barrage, the dispersed formation is advantageous for evasion and also easier. Above all, since there is no fear of being taken out in one shot, in a position of preparing for long-range attacks, the dispersed formation should be the basic stance.

“Kijung-ssi? What are you planning?”

“I have to take them out.”

However, starfleet’s approach was different. They had one of the top tanks in Middle Earth.

“What? Even if it’s Kijung-ssi, it’s a waste of effort for nothing.”

“It can’t be helped… If the terrain is disadvantageous for us, we will be in trouble. We just need to hold them off for a few shots, so don’t worry, Bobae-ssi.”

Of course, it wasn’t just overconfidence because of Kijung’s skills. It was a judgment that if the terrain had severe undulations when Hyein and the Paladin forces arrived, they would lose their charge, and it would be best to maintain terrain as flat as possible for a defensive battle similar to interception.

“We don’t know how many shots they can take… But once they realize that their attacks are not effective, they will surely come back. If they can hold out for at least five shots, they will advance again.

“Whew, whew.”


Everyone stopped behind Kijung, and Kijung prepared to block the shells using skills.

As Biyemi and Bobae respectively tilted their heads to both sides of Kijung, waiting for the right time to attack, a bright light flashed in the distance once again.

*Light-”

“Hyaaaap, come on—!”

“-Boom, hehe, it exploded- right?”

Bobae and Biyemi looked at each other with puzzled expressions.

“Ehhhh… What?”

Including Kijung, the other Byulcho members also raised their heads. There was certainly light. But the murky light that exploded in the air had already disappeared, leaving only smoke rising in its place.

“What’s that? Smoke in the sky?”

“No, it’s not light again! It’s another explosion.”

As Bobae pointed her finger towards the sky, Kijung hurriedly raised his shield, but his expression turned despondent at the mention that followed.

“Ugh! Bobae! I have to put all my strength into defense! Stop making me do these exercises and tell me clearly when the guy is attacking-”

“Aaargh!”

“Whoa, where is it!?”

Interrupting Kijung’s complaints, a tremendous scream was heard. It was relatively close, so the members of the Starlite rushed around, shouting.

“Kay! Over there!”

The first to spot it was Tale. Everyone turned their heads in the direction he indicated.

“The Corrupted World Tree Forest… is that it?”

“Kiki… it seems blurry. Bobae, what do you see?”

Jin Gonggong and Biyemi squinted but couldn’t make out a clear figure either. Bobae, watching in that direction using a skill, had a dynamic change in expression.

“Waaah! It’s a huge thing!”

“What is it, Bobae-ssi?”

Kijung asked, but Bobae didn’t respond.

“And… it’s being held by… Luger?”

No, perhaps that was the right answer. The eyes of Leeha, looking at the image, widened.

“Wait, did I mishear that? Luger?” (To be continued…)
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“Luger?”

Kijung squinted in confusion.

“When you say ‘Luger’, which Luger are you talking about?”

But Bobae was just as puzzled.

“Oh, yeah. That Luger… I feel like he disappeared for a while, but when did he come back? No, how long has he been here?”

Bobae corrected herself. Did he come upon hearing the news of the arrival of Ghibrid and Chimera Legion? But knowing his human nature, he wouldn’t be helping anyone in this situation. Unless, of course, he had already been here for several days.

“It doesn’t make sense. I didn’t see him… How did he manage to sneak in there? The Corrupted World Tree Forest is near where we were guarding.”

Teleportation was possible around the Corrupted World Tree Forest. It meant you could store locations by carefully skimming the boundaries of the corrupted area, but it was always heavily monitored due to the possibility of operatives from the Demon Army, including the Demon King, using it as a contact point.

“He snuck in there without being noticed? Maybe he teleported from a much further place, seizing the opportunity during a yawn.”

Why would he want to go there, though? Was it something he remembered hearing? Leeha was not one to get so curious. The more he thought about it, the more questions arose, and there seemed to be no simple answers.

“But it’s possible that…”

“Even Leeha-nim’s gunfire is incomparable to that, Kikkit.”

Jin Gonggong plugged his ears as Byumi trembled noticeably from the loud noise. The vibration that started in front of the Corrupted World Tree Forest reached far-off places without losing its intensity.

“I don’t know why this person Luger is there, but at least his intentions seem to align with ours.”

“Huh?”

“The Manticores are maneuvering in the air.”

As everyone’s gaze turned towards Luger, Tale observed the enemy’s movements that Luger seemed to be targeting.

It seemed like the Chimera Legion was planning to eliminate the interference force known as Star-Cross, using Lugermon as vanguard. However, their movements suddenly came to a halt. The reason?

Without a second thought, “Because of Luger.”


As evidence, while the Chimeras remained stationary, the Manticores in the air began to move actively and in unison.

“They seem to be avoiding something.”

In response to someone’s words, Bobae swiftly retorted, “No, they’re not trying to avoid it. They’re coiling. Clearly! They’re coiling!”

“Not that! Go back!”

“They’re recoiling again?!”

The conversation was nearly indiscernible due to the uproar.

Although they shouted at each other as if cursing, none of them took their eyes off the Manticores. Swirling in different directions, then converging back together, it seemed like they were flowing outwards or maneuvering to evade, only to mix back in. Watching them, Kijung felt a sense of unease. It was evidently not the usual method of monster movement. The Manticores moved as if they already knew how to avoid attacks and sow confusion.

“Teehee… employing tactics”, one of them remarked.

“What?”

“Each time they gather in one place—” And the first to figure out why the Manticores were moving that way was Biyemi. Biyemi pointed towards the center of the Corrupted World Tree Forest.

…!

Smoke rose along with flames at that spot.

“Are they… shooting?”

“Lugermon is shooting!”

“If they’re doing that—”

“Kiskis, perhaps they’re trying to make it impossible to pinpoint who’s firing by only shooting when they gather and disperse again?”

Feeling dumbfounded by Biyemi’s analysis, Kijung found it absurd that these seemingly brainless creatures were undergoing evolution. But that was not the only astonishing thing. If those monsters have already identified and analyzed their opponents before they’ve even fully grasped what’s going on, and have prepared a countermeasure accordingly, would that mean they’ve evolved beyond creatures that merely form stable communities within the monster intelligence spectrum?

“This is incredible… Compared to the other Chimera, even if we don’t know about them, manticores are certainly real in terms of their intelligence level that surpasses species that build peaceful social structures.”

“What about Bobae-nim, and Luger-nim?”

“I think they’re still alive? Th-That blue, layered, long, huge thing is visible as it is!”


Bobae struggled to describe the indescribable “something.”

She was observing it carefully. Luger seemed to be using roots jutting out from the Contaminated World Tree forest as some sort of cover, remaining motionless.

“Hmm, does that mean they’re not going to flee…』

“Hehe… What are they doing now? Someone watching might think it’s a showdown between monsters with guts.”

What kind of battle is this, exactly? Watching two entities exchanging bombardments while maintaining a distance of at least three meters apart, Kijung couldn’t help but find it entertaining. Despite the intense appearance, they had only exchanged three shots in total – two from Luger’s side and one from Lugermon’s. The Manticores, lying prone, were once again regrouping. The moment they fully gathered, another shot would be fired.

“Luger seems to be in danger… Should I go and help?”

Kijung suggested, concerned.

“How soon do you think you can get there, Kijung? Are you planning to use 『Dinosaur Transformation』 here?”

“Well, even so! It would be challenging if Luger were to die! Besides, except for my older hyung, this is the longest distance shooting I’ve ever seen…”

Suddenly, explosions erupted from both sides. A giant flame erupted into the air, accompanied by black smoke, and dust rose from the contaminated Forest of the World Tree.

“Wow…”

“It’s so loud!”

“Can attacks really take place just with sound? How on earth are the parties enduring this?”

A thunderous noise from the combined explosions struck the senses.

“More importantly, check on the status of Luger and Lugermon! Hurry!”

Kijung yelled amidst the commotion.

“It seems like he missed a bit! Was the distance too short? The Manticores seem dazed!”

“Luger’s side also… while the surrounding roots have been severed, it seems like he isn’t dead. But if things continue this way, it could get dangerous next time!”

Jin Gonggong and Bobae assessed the conditions on each side. Kijung pondered once again.

If he were to use 『Dinosaur Transformation』 and rush in at an explosive speed, he might reach Luger before the next bombardment. However, if the Chimeras and Ghibrid pushed in during his movement, there would be no way to deal with them.


“Darn, should I leave that side to Luger after all? Does Luger truly understand this situation… understand? He understood it?”

Kijung suddenly felt a chill run down his spine. If Luger truly comprehended the current situation and how to handle it, there might be a silver lining. Has Luger already perceived the moment when the monsters gather to shoot, and is now targeting that timing?

At the meeting of individuals who seemed to be quite capable of analysis even while exposed to the risks of bombardment, the truth surfaced. And if Luger is able to react without falling behind even with their remarkable response, what does that say about his capabilities?

As Kijung was astonished by this realization, the smoke on both sides dissipated.

“The blue hue on Luger’s side… Oh, it seems to have intensified.”

“It got stronger?”

“Well, not exactly stronger, but maybe denser? Earlier, it seemed a bit more translucent…”

“Hehe, could it be your eyes that have adjusted to it?”

“Anyway-”

“Wait! The scattered Manticores are regrouping. They might come back together!”

Jin Gonggong shouted as he listened to the conversation between Bobae and Biyemi.

“We might need to use it soon, does Luger have a shield? Probably has a defensive skill or two, right?”

“Hehe, with the money earned under the name of 『Mercenary of War』, he should have a few accessories with defensive options.”

Biyemi gave a realistic answer to Bobae’s concern, but Jin Gonggong wasn’t too concerned about such talk. The Manticores were converging towards a spot, visible even to the members of Starlight far away.

Then, what about Luger?

“Of course-”

At that moment, the Manticores converged at a point. Jin Gonggong turned his head towards the Corrupted World Tree Forest just as they gathered.

“-Let’s aim.”

And witnessed a burst of blue fireworks erupting from that spot. From one place in the Chimera Legion, a low, vibrating cry echoed.

“What’s that sound?”

“This feels awful! It’s like someone’s massaging your head too hard!”

“The Manticores… the Manticores are moving again.”

It didn’t feel like there was any effect of an attack or being affected by any abnormal status. Yet, enough was happening to cause discomfort. Simultaneously, the Manticores began flying somewhere.

“They’re heading towards Luger!”

“Damn it! They’re fast. Tale-hyungnim, please handle this side! 『Dinosaur Transformation』!”

Their direction of flight was clear. The Corrupted World Tree Forest, which meant their target was Luger!

Jin Gonggong immediately activated her skill and rushed forward.

“Whoa!? This feeling! It’s like something out of a movie!”

Dinosaur Transformation completely altered her usual perspective, as if looking through the eyes of a fierce beast, enhancing the ability to see every movement of each target in detail.

“If this feeling allows me to predict the enemy’s attack direction almost perfectly, using this skill will make tanking even more perfect, right?”

With a gaze fixed on Luger, Jin Gonggong organized her thoughts.

She was not as surprised as others, as she could already deduce what was happening. 『Luger Neiiiim-!』

With a speed akin to a cheetah running, it was plausible to reduce a 3-m distance in an instant. However, being slower than a Manticores launched from the air was unacceptable! So, Kijung was shouting his lungs out to both announce his arrival and catch the Manticores’ attention as he arrived.

At that moment, even Leeha who was watching the screen couldn’t help but be surprised.

“Luger, that purple… wait, huh? What is that!?”

A purple light emerged from Luger’s side in the forest. Even though the distance was considerable, the figure that appeared with the light was easily recognizable by Kijung and Leeha. A fedora slung low and a fluttering coat. Unlike before, the coat was now stained with specks of dirt. It might have seemed out of place, but to Leeha, it strangely suited him well. A needlessly stylish man. A guy with the experience to carry himself like a protagonist.

“Ki, Kidd!? The Three Musketeers’ teleportation!”

Suddenly appearing beside Luger with a loud crack was Kidd. The distance between Kijung and Luger & Kidd was about 400 meters. As Kijung’s view in the video zoomed in on them, ha couldn’t help but burst into laughter in disbelief.

“… Will they prattle if they meet at length?”

Luger and Kidd were exchanging banter, pointing their guns at each other. What on earth were they discussing? Couldn’t they sense the tension? Leeha shook his head.

“That can’t be right. Those two are-”

Kidd turned his body. Luger, standing decisively, adjusted his stance. The translucent blue object that seemed to engulf Luger’s entire body appeared even more clearly.

The charging Manticores were a mere 100 meters away from them. Kijung, holding up his shield, still had about 2300 meters to reach them.

Leeha couldn’t contain his excitement. Even if Kijung were to arrive, or even if he didn’t, there would be no issue now. Despite the banter, a more trustworthy ally than anyone else. Since Kidd’s appearance, Luger’s face exuded even more confidence.

“-The rivals I have no choice but to acknowledge- Bullshit, it’s no exaggeration to say they’re the craziest guys in Middle Earth.”

Fixing his ‘expression’ in light of his thoughts, Leeha continued watching the video. The Desperado and Cannoneer began to ignite with excitement. A smile graced Leeha’s lips. (To be continued…)
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『Kidd! Luger! Behind me-』 『-uh…need to retreat?』

Kijung’s voice cracked oddly.

What poured out towards the charging Manticores were no longer suitable to be called ‘bullets.’

“What’s that? Fo- no, Kidd, what are you shooting now? I can’t even see-”

Even those with extensive knowledge of firearms were finding it difficult to grasp what kind of attack was being launched. The only thing known was that their attacks were quite effective!

“Kkiieee-!”

“Kaaaah! Kaaaah!”

“Kwahaha! Tremble in fear! No matter what, you’ll only end up as a sacrifice for Acht-Acht!”

“How many were hit by that brutish attack? All those Manticores were killed by my attack.”

“Ha, don’t make me laugh! What kind of attack did you do with that toy gun-”

“That toy gun? Will you come to your senses when you’ve got a hole in your forehead from my toy gun?”

Kijung’s footsteps gradually slowed. There was no longer any strength left in him to tremble. The charging Manticores quickly changed direction and began to flee faster than before, while Kidd and Luger, impressed with their accomplishments, were indulging in childish banter.

“Hey…what’s going on? Th-the Manticores-”

“Leeha’s cousin.”

“Haha! Did Leeha send you to spy on us? Where is that idiot Leeha now?”

Kidd and Luger’s gazes turned to Kijung simultaneously. Despite Kidd’s eyes showing a hint of wariness and Luger openly teasing, Kijung did not react at all. The Manticores scattered on the ground were completely roasted.

“First, twenty-two… Lugermon died there, so twenty-one. Acht added to that death?”

Only about a dozen Manticores remained on Ghibrid faction’s side. Countless users, including Byulcho, had been trying to kill the Manticores all along.

They couldn’t let the Chimaeras increase any further. Taking into account the number of chimeras produced by a single manticore, it’s not an exaggeration to say that one manticore is worth a thousand chimeras.


“Even if we conservatively estimate, it’s worth at least 500 chimeras. In fact, even the Pope himself mentioned that depending on the individual characteristics, one manticore is worth a thousand chimeras. However, over the past few months, including the involvement of outsiders like the Nanda Guild, only three manticores were captured.”

As Kidd’s bullets — even if they managed to capture one per shot, it was considered a significant achievement — with just two people, in less than twenty minutes, they had already taken down eleven manticores.

“Surely last time… we couldn’t deliver a direct hit. No, it should be seen that way based on the manticore’s design itself. Firearms don’t work well. They completely abandon long-range attacks, and quickly evade close-range attacks, making them difficult opponents, Ghibrid’s companion… monster.”

Looking at Kidd and Luger, Kijung opened his mouth again.

“What are you looking at? Counting your kills?”

“I didn’t want to show Leeha, but now that it’s come to this, maybe it’s better to be thorough in selecting.”

Kidd walked towards Kijung, alternately looking at Luger and Kijung.

“I was definitely faster than you, Luger. All that’s left is between Leeha and me.”

“Don’t make me laugh! You came to brag to me as soon as ‘it’ was over! At that point, I was already finished. So, I’m first, you’re second— Leeha, of course, is third! It’s the same as it was during the Three Musketeers!” 『By the way… since earlier, what are you talking about…』 Meanwhile, Kijung thought to himself. People who can be considered rivals to Leeha aren’t in their right minds. Seeing this, Kidd and Luger shouted simultaneously.

“Ask when the time for completing the second job advancement was. Then we’ll know who’s—”

“-first! Hahahaha! Most likely me!” 『The second job advancement?』 Kijung’s tone changed as the video cut off. Leeha then realized something.

“Oh… I didn’t say anything to Kijung, did I?”

What might Kijung be thinking right now? While the two fools in the video were determined to determine who ranked first, what was Kijung pondering? Of course, Leeha didn’t need to worry about that. It had only been a few minutes since he sent the video to Leeha, and coincidentally, Leeha’s phone was ringing.

“K-Kijung—”

Kijung: Uh, it’s really disappointing. How could you not say a word? Jin Gonggong knew.

“-Uh, well, that’s… I was about to tell you now!”

Kijung: Now? Oh, so you were about to tell me now?

“I-I need to succeed first, right? You’ll know whether it’s the second job advancement or what, or maybe the third advancement, right?”

Hearing Kijung’s cold voice, Leeha hastily made excuses. While there was some logic to the excuse, upon closer inspection, it was quite a far-fetched explanation.

Kijung: Eong-ah couldn’t understand the context of it? Didn’t even know just by looking at the quest title?


“… That’s not it. Heh heh, sorry. I didn’t mean to drag you into it unnecessarily. You said you roughly heard about it from Jin Gonggong? Do you think you can win a battle targeting 30,000 Giants like you?”

It was just as Leeha had once thought. Members of the Byulcho were not the target of the quest. Engaging in combat with Giants meant bearing 80% of the burden and penalties to become younger.

No matter how close he was to Leeha, he couldn’t rashly jump in. No, the problem would only worsen if he did jump in. His own complicated feelings caused by their friendship would then become an issue.

Kijung: If Hyung had called me!

“If I had called you?”

Of course, Kijung wouldn’t have done that. If Leeha had called, Kijung would have even dived into a pit of fire with explosives. Nevertheless, Kijung didn’t continue the conversation.

Kijung: … No. So, did you succeed?

“Of course, brat. From now on, I’m not a Musketeer anymore!”

-And then?

“White- Well… um… White-”

Kijung: White?

Leeha barely managed to calm down his suddenly flushed face. He realized that speaking that word out loud was more embarrassing than he had thought.

“Don’t laugh! Ha, 『White Reaper』! You’re a Holy Knight too.”

Kijung: Wow!? White Reaper? Your job name is White Reaper? Awesome! What’s this? Hyung, that’s so cool!

“Yeah? Cool?”

Kijung: Exactly! White Reaper, man, amazing! Alexander’s second job is Dragon Knight, which is just typical! With a name like White Reaper, you sound like you’re the top rank!?

However, Leeha was the only one feeling embarrassed.

“Well, about that second job advancement, is there a distinction as well?”

He also had some questions as he heard Kijung’s flustered voice through the receiver. What is the difference if someone’s job title is closer to a common noun with someone’s job title being closer to a proper noun. ? ‘Is there a connection between the achievements of the Infamous Ghost of the Past? Hmm, then could there be someone inheriting something from a 『well-known』 figure from the past rather than a notorious one?’

What about those who receive overwhelmingly positive evaluations from NPCs and undergo a second job change after receiving special keywords from them? What is the difficulty level of the second job change? Such thoughts briefly crossed Leeha’s mind, but he couldn’t continue to dwell on them any longer. He had a mountain of things to answer to the excitable Kijung, and he himself had things he wanted to figure out.


“Already two hours since the recording?”

Kijung: Yes. That should be enough. Since it includes Middle Earth time, it would have been about half a day by that standard.

Within the scene recorded by Kijung is the moment when Luger completed his second job advancement. From that moment on, Kidd would have also completed his second job advancement. And the time of the recording? It’s almost identical to when I underwent the advancement, isn’t it?”

So, who among the Three Musketeers completed the first second job advancement?

Regardless of whether it was Doctor Doom Rubini or not, it felt like one could foresee the future.

“It’s going to be noisy every time we meet.”

After a pleasant conversation with Kijung, Leeha lay down on the bed. Even lying down, the smile on my face did not fade.

 ※ ※ ※

“Indeed, our side leaking information is inevitable. They know what they know.”

“It’s time to start. It’ll be good for us if they don’t show up, why are you making such a fuss?”

“It’s not the time to be so calm! Minis is being dispatched in five days, you know that?”

Shin Nara slammed the conference room table, raising her voice. Lark nodded, whether approving or not. It was an attitude that he had experienced this ‘pattern’ too many times.

“Not only Minis, but also Shazrashian and Kraven. It’s a large-scale dispatch directly under the’s order! How casually…”

“Be precise in your expression. It’s not a dispatch but a deployment.”

Shin Nara pointed out with a sharp tone, to which Lark smiled.

“Then you should also use the right title. It’s scheduled to depart in five days as the 『Official Joint Deployment Force for the Development of the Sacred and Peaceful Erika Continent, and Economic and Military Cooperation between the Two Continents, lope Continent』. It’s so long that, already among the users, the abbreviated term 『Sacred Alliance』 has been adopted. Departure schedule, affiliated countries, country-specific deployment forces, ah, right, not forces but ‘personnel’, but anyway, searching the internet reveals a stream of information. At this point, it’s not appropriate to say ‘internal information has leaked’, right?”

Shin Nara couldn’t say anything in response to Lark’s words. She knew as well.

“But… it will be even more difficult to block if Faust and Igor show up after the knights have left.”

However, Faust and Igor had not appeared even once since that day. This fact confused Shin Nara’s mind. Having suffered enough anxiety about ‘defense’ after Petyr’s assassination attempt to Fibiel’s king, it was due to the unease that arose in her mind that caused her to be caught in a loop.

Lark patted her slumped shoulders.

“I understand your feelings, Nara-ssi. But now that things have come to this point, focusing on that side is a waste of brainpower. It would be more like you to quickly find Bluebeard and Chiyou in the New Continent to facilitate Igor and Faust’s return. That’s more like the Nara-ssi, right? You’ll soon be the 『Swift Swordsster』! No, was it 『Swift Knight』?”

“Swordsman! Chee, always pretending to be interested-”

“Hehehe, that’s right. The quest has made some progress, right?”

As a faint smile crept onto Shin Nara’s lips, Lark quickly changed the subject.

Shin Nara, who had just looked lifeless moments before, regained her vigor and opened the quest window.

“No, thanks to you, Lark, we seem to have passed the first one… but strictly speaking, since it has nothing to do with Lepanto, it’s difficult.”

“Hm, that’s true. The second job advancement shouldn’t be easy. I heard that Leeha’s situation has been quite serious recently; there might be something for us there as well.”

“Leeha? What happened?”

“Huh? Don’t you know, Shin Nara-ssi?”

Lark asked in a tone warning against lying, but Shin Nara’s expression remained unchanged.

Seeing her blink her large eyes, Lark sighed in realization.

“So Leeha managed to quell the rumors of going into Fibiel… Anyway, that president is quite something.”

“What, what’s going on? Why is Leeha-”

“It’s not a bad thing. There’s nothing bad about it, well… should I say it’s a bad thing for the Shazzarians’ giants?”

Lark recalled the information he had heard. It was a series of unbelievable events.

“I wouldn’t have been able to face 30,000 troops without going crazy. If it were me…” He briefly gripped the hilt of his sword and then lowered his head.

“There seems to be no way. Not right now.”

Seeing him grin, Shin Nara urged him further, but Lark didn’t easily offer an answer.

“Just know that becoming the 『Swift Swordsster』 is going to be incredibly difficult.”

“Why! Why would you say that, Lark-ssi!”

“I mean, ask Leeha-ssi.”

“If I ask Leeha-ssi, will I get an answer? You have completed the second job advancement… right?”

Shin Nara’s expression quickly changed. She was also a user who felt disappointed if she couldn’t catch clues!

Even with Lark’s reaction, the outcome was easily predictable. Lark extended ten fingers towards her and nodded his head. (To be continued…) 
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“Kkuu… It’s a perfect score, a perfect score. That’s why I like Nara-ssi.”

“W- What are you talking about!”

Even while receiving Shin Nara’s punches, Lark laughed. However, his laughter was not purely joyful.

Although he succeeded in diverting Shin Nara’s attention, in reality, nothing had been resolved. The issue with Igor and Faust, the issue with Chiyou, and the strange events happening recently—all of them.

‘What are they aiming for exactly? At this point, not a single person knew for sure. In fact, even Chiyou, who was in Bluebeard’s side, had not yet properly set his direction.

※ ※

“Hmm… Are you sure about this?”

Leeha glanced playfully at the other person, but their expression wasn’t good. Karelin quickly cleared his throat and opened his mouth.

“I understand your intention, but… not in a place like this.”

“Th-that’s right. Haha, I’m sorry. Hey, it’s not like I was suggesting that the mighty Shazrashian Federation snuck in some toxic clauses or anything like that. With the whole continent in an uproar lately, I just thought you might have missed something while dealing with that!”

He quickly tried to play it off, but there was no way Karelin and the Shazrashian president NPC wouldn’t catch onto Leeha’s intent. To doubt the other party at a signing ceremony, especially after negotiations had concluded, was a blunder too embarrassing to call merely a ‘mistake.’

Having been tricked countless times by NPCs in Middle Earth, ihwa was naturally cautious.

‘Besides, it’s so thick. Still, blaugrun said it was okay, so it should be fine.’

Though he wasn’t sure what or how much Blaugrunn knew about the humans’ agreements, he figured trusting a dragon’s AI was better than his own judgment.

Leeha quickly finished signing.

“Alright! It’s done.”

“Then, as stated in the terms of the agreement, we will send manpower for the northern resource development starting today, so we ask for your cooperation.”

“Yes, of course. Don’t worry. I will inform ‘White Reaper’ beforehand.”

Leeha shook hands with the president and took the documents. The president’s hand was at least three times larger than Leeha’s palm, but it was the president who flinched when they shook hands. Watching this scene sadly, Karelin guided Leeha out of the reception room.


“Leeha-nim, are you not going to the New Continent?”

“I’m writing. I think I’ll be staying in the Old Continent area for a while. What about Karelin-nim?”

When Leeha logged in after a short nap, it was already three days past in Middle Earth. He also checked the bustling discussions about the 『Sacred Alliance』.

“Right, it’s a must. I missed out on a major quest, but… I can’t afford to miss a large-scale event.”

“Well, saying that makes me feel embarrassed. Haha.”

Karelin, a Ranker and a representative user of Shazrashian, was always in the loop. In fact, it was safe to say that practically all the top rankers from each country were involved.

“Talking with Nara-ssi really helped.”

As soon as he logged in, Leeha began chatting excitedly with Nara, discussing everything from Igor and Faust’s trends to the true motives behind the 『Sacred Alliance』.

“It was a deployment of developmental resources by the Alliance’s standpoint.”

From the perspective of the Ezwen Kingdom, it might not be easy to associate words like ‘war’ or ‘military power’.

It could be viewed as an issue of pacifism, but in this case, it seems more about preventing a situation that could escalate into something serious, right? But that’s the situation within Middle Earth.

Leeha pondered on other matters, contemplating the hidden meanings behind it.

‘We should look at it from a gaming perspective. The ‘real reason’ for not using such words?’

Given the current situation, if military forces were deployed and a war broke out, the administrators might unintentionally trigger an early war.

“There’s a possibility of the storyline and timeline getting tangled… isn’t there.”

At this point, with the Third Human-Demon War not yet happening, how should they prepare for a potential ‘war’ by deploying ‘military forces’? Hence, within the Ezwen Kingdom in Middle Earth, those words were all removed.

“Phew! If that’s the case, Lark really is something.”

Nevertheless, what led to this line of thought was mainly due to Lark, which was impressive but also somewhat disappointing for him. Since Shin Nara relayed words verbatim, Leeha was able to understand it well.

Leeha: I guess that’s what’s happening.

Nara: Huh? What do you mean?


Leeha: They’re trying to manipulate users to prevent the outbreak of the Third Human-Demon Great War. While doing so, they hide expressions like ‘military forces’ and ‘war’ by deploying such massive forces… There’s only one outcome.”

『The 3rd Human-Demon War』

Lark considered it a foregone conclusion, though he had added an unfortunate caveat.

“Well, if the ‘Sacred Alliance’ gets thoroughly crushed, then the Third War between Humans and Demons or whatever will just be over anyway.”

Even though it was a casual conversation with Shin Nara, it felt like Lark’s voice was echoing. Not only his voice, but also his subtly sly expression.

However, it was undeniable that there was logic in his words. It was not just for the development of the New Continent, as the assembled forces were truly formidable even if they gathered the best NPCs and knights from all over the Lope Continent.

“Thank you for not using the bombs when the 8 knights approached.”

“It’s not that I didn’t use them, but I couldn’t. Karelin-nim’s orders were so quick and precise that there was no time to do so.”

At that point, there were no more bombs to use. Bottleneck had only responded once to Leeha’s request, and Leeha had also benefited greatly from it, so there was no need to push further.

Of course, Leeha did not disclose that fact, and indeed, Karelin’s command was excellent, so Leeha’s “lip service” was effective.

“Hehe, I see. It would have been better if we could have approached a little faster before the Human Flesh Hunter – no, before the White Reaper’s ultimate move detonated. Or… when Leeha went offline.”

Karelin subtly revealed his inner thoughts.

While it was already over, there was no way not to feel regret. If Leeha hadn’t used the bombs, if the White Reaper’s ultimate move hadn’t existed. Or if he had waited a few more days until Leeha logged out, would he have not been defeated?

Leeha understood what Karelin’s words meant. Of course, there was only one possible response Leeha could give.

“Even if I was not there, the White Reaper’s ‘ultimate move’ would have gone off… are you saying you would have given me a few days? Hehe, would I have just politely logged out?”

Interrupting Karelin’s thoughts, Leeha added more to his words.

“At least another five thousand would have died. No, maybe even enough to blow up the whole Hamina Castle…”

“Impossible!”

“Ah, why are you making that face again? What, do you really think I would do that? Hehe, Karelin-nim, you’re something else!”

As Leeha burst into laughter, Karelin’s expression quickly stiffened. Karelin was aware that there was a sufficient possibility of such events actually occurring.


“Right, right. Do you remember what I told you before?”

“Of course. That’s what I desire as well.”

As Karelin extended his hand for a handshake, Leeha grasped it. Karelin had clearly said it before.

Let’s not meet as enemies next time. Leeha also wanted that. What could be gained from turning a wrestler who had developed a ridiculous skill called “Absolute Judgment: Grab” into an enemy? Above all, there were many questions about how far the potential of that skill could go.

“If you come to the New Continent, please contact me.”

“Okay. Oh, by the way, there are many people I want to introduce to Karelin-nim, you know? There’s also the person in charge of the Paleos in the New Continent, and even the strongest knight of our Fibiel. If we think about the future tasks, it’ll be beneficial for us to get to know each other.”

Karelin couldn’t possibly be unaware of the existence of Ram Hwayeon and the Shin Nara. Leeha nodded and grabbed the crystal ball.

Then he added, “I would like to ask you a favor. I will contact you soon. As soon as possible.”

“Yes, I’ll wait.”

“But will really be quick. Maybe we’ll contact within an hour-”

Swaaaah… |!

With a bright flash, the figures of Leeha and Blaugrunn disappeared. Karelin chuckled and shook his head lightly.

“Unpredictable person. What business could possibly require contacting within an hour?”

Unpredictable?

Karelin was simply ignorant about Leeha. Leeha had gone to a small city in the western part of Shazrashian. ※

『Pandirand People: Whereabouts』

Description:

“Can you tell my fellow countrymen that they can live without discrimination anymore, that they can come out? In the name of the ‘White Reaper.’ I don’t have much time, so I ask urgently.”

Shimo’s soul was gradually fading. Although the Paldrinians are hidden throughout the Shazrashian Federation, there is no need to find them all. After finding surviving Paldrinians, deliver the abolition of discrimination in the name of the ‘White Reaper.’

Mission: Find at least one Paldrinian within 50 days. Reward: 『Pandirand People: Truth』, 『White Reaper: Keen Eyes’』. Condition for Failure: If the deadline is exceeded (remaining time: 47 days).

Penalty for Failure: Quest route will be deleted.

“It’s not a very tight deadline… It’s fine, I just need to find one person.”

These were the thoughts of Leeha as he confirmed the quest he had received from Shimo just before logging out. It had been about three days already, but the quest conditions were relatively easy. Leeha thought that if he carefully investigated the non-giant NPCs, he would somehow make a connection. He had already confirmed through internet search that there were non-giant NPCs in the city he had currently moved to.

“The reward is one linked quest… and, hehehe, hehehe!”

『Pandred People: Truth』 was definitely a linked quest.

What would the next quest be?

Leeha remembered.

When he and the White Reaper fought against the 30,000-strong giant army, what had he sketched into the grand strategy map?

“Explosives and wind… The nuances he mentioned back then were definitely like that!”

If he could read the wind?

Even now, Leeha instinctively read and calculated the wind, but seeing it firsthand and feeling it were different stories.

Leeha touched his head as Blaugrunn chuckled.

“Why? Is your hair falling out? Humans have many categories like that.”

“What? Is it falling out?”

“You’re fine now. But in the past, in books I read, humans often ended up like that due to family history.”

“What nonsense! You startled me. Well, there’s no way I’d go bald in Middle Earth…”

Leeha was touching his head because of the rare Harpy hat. If he could read the wind…

He could change to a hat with a better option.

“I’m still uncertain how to utilize it. Hmm, it would be difficult to shoot if it’s a place like the Eternal Snow Mountain.”

“But how do you find that human’s kin? It’s not something you can classify with mana detection.”

“Huh? Oh, you don’t have to worry about that.”

As Leeha organized his thoughts, Blaugrunn spoke to his again. He had logged out to relieve fatigue and to gather information on the internet. However, the ultimate reason why Leeha, who was closer to being a Middle Earth addict, could afford to relax a bit was something else.

『Achievement: Hero of Shazirashian Minority (S-)』 Congratulations! Your name is rising and falling among the nationals of the small countries before the Federation. Most of the giants may not be pleased with the Shazirashian Federation’s dominance, but as someone who strove to abolish the bigotry and discrimination practiced by them, they will remember you.

Rewards: Strength +7, agility +7, intelligence +7

Intimacy with non-Giant races in Shazrashian Federation +30%

You are the first registrant of the achievement 『Hero of Shazirashian Minority』. Up to the third registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with an additional 200% applied to the existing effects.

Effect: Strength +14, agility +14, intelligence +14

Intimacy with non-Giant races in Shazrashian Federation +60%

(To be continued…) 
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“They will find me even if I don’t seek them out.”

Although the affinity increased by 90% was a notable achievement, Leeha’s focus was on the aspect of ‘hospitality’.

Wasn’t it natural to be hospitable if affinity increased?

Even so, why was the option of hospitality specifically included?

“It must be some sort of trap. Maybe if that achievement isn’t acquired, it would be impossible to find the Panrind Inhabitants, or something along those lines.”

Having been deceived by Middle Earth more than once, Leeha instinctively felt this was the key to resolving the current quest.

“Well, this should be the place. Let’s go in.”

Leeha and Blaugun opened the creaky door of a shabby general store and stepped inside.

The NPC standing at the counter was certainly not a Giant.

* * *

“Um… Hello.”

Leeha greeted the NPC store owner. The heavily fur-clad Lizardia grinned broadly, revealing a set of sharp teeth.

“A precious guest has arrived at such a humble place. Welcome, Leeha.”

It wasn’t a Giant, indeed… but it wasn’t a human either.

“A Lizardia? In a winter country like this?”

Lizardians were generally found in Fibiel and Minis.

lizard folk could utilize 120% of their physical abilities in hot climates.

As a result, they were scarce in places dominated by the sea like Kraven or snowy fields like Shazrashian.

This tendency was particularly true for NPCs, except for certain players who enjoyed unconventional gameplay.


“At any rate, it’s not a Panrind.”

Feeling a bit disappointed, Leeha awkwardly nodded and started to look around the shop. Upon seeing Leeha’s crestfallen expression, blaugun offered some consolation.

—Don’t be too down because it’s not human. Another one will show up when we keep searching. They already recognized you as Leeha.

—That’s a good thing, but… sigh.

Surprised to find a Lizardia, Leeha paused momentarily.

Nevertheless, he had to ask. He decided to speak up. After all, the Lizardia might also be part of a discriminated minority, potentially having some connection to the Panrind people.

Just as he was gathering his thoughts, the Lizardia NPC came out from behind the counter.

The Lizardia, who had been smiling at Leeha, walked to the entrance and started locking the door.

“Uh, umm? Excuse me─”

“Please wait a moment.”

“What is…”

Click, clack—!

In an unusual manner for a general store, the Lizardia secured multiple locks on the door before turning back to Leeha.

It was Leeha who stopped Blaugun from gathering mana.

—We shouldn’t fight.

—I’ll just be prepared.

—No, not even preparation. Um, just hold them in a state of paralysis with the quietest magic.

—What?

—We can’t risk causing delays here.

The Lizardia smiled while looking at him. It was clear the Lizardia wouldn’t attack first.


However, another accomplishment weighed on Leeha’s mind.

〈Achievement: Under surveillance by the Shazrashian Federation (A+)〉

Shall I congratulate you?

In a way, you have been recognized by a nation! They may call it ‘unofficial’, but everyone associated with them will be ‘officially’ monitoring you! You better not cause any trouble within that country’s territory.

Reward: Agility +8, stamina +5, willpower +5

If caught by guards or higher NPCs within the territory of that country, every merit point -500

‘I’m already at minus a thousand! If I get caught again and lose -500 each time…!’

She worried about getting banned from the Shazrashian Federation.

The fact that such an achievement wasn’t listed in the Hall of Fame amused Leeha, but she had no time to care about that now.

Finally, after locking all the locks and drawing all the curtains, lizardia walked toward Leeha.

As Leeha and Blaugrunn watched the mana slowly gathering around Lizardia, their eyes widened.

“Shuuu…!”

Lizardia’s NPC body started emitting light.

Leeha blocked Blaugrunn’s spellcasting and asked Zellafon to protect her.

“Leeha-nim!”

“No, don’t use it. Hold on—”

The bickering between Leeha and Blaugrunn was almost comical.

Once all the emitted light disappeared and they opened their eyes, what they saw was not Lizardia.

“I have eagerly awaited meeting a hero of our people.”

A young man stood there, arms open towards Leeha.


“…Huh?”

“Polymorph—no, there was no mana flow—”

Blaugrunn was more shocked than Leeha. Leeha didn’t know how to process this strange feeling of emptiness.

“Welcome, White Reaper.”

『Panrind Tribe: Whereabouts』

You completed the quest.

The quest they thought would take at least over a week was completed in just one day.

* * *

As Leeha and Blaugrunn stood speechless with their mouths open, the shop owner, now human, chuckled awkwardly.

“I hope I didn’t startle you too much. However… we’ve only heard ‘those rumors’, and can’t tell when it will actually happen—”

“Wait, so… you’re from the Panrind Tribe?”

“Yes.”

“How? Why Lizardia? And what do you mean by ‘those rumors’? What have you already heard—”

“How! How did you transform, human? There was no mana flow typical of polymorph! And it doesn’t seem like you used any item—”

“Hold on, Blaugrunn! Let me speak first!”

“I should go first, Leeha! The fun I had with the spectacled beast was one thing, but this is entirely different!”

Leeha and Blaugrunn tried to clamp each other’s mouths shut as they argued.

The Panrind member, bewildered, attempted to intervene but didn’t dare touch Leeha and Blaugrunn.

“Please, both of you. I’ll answer all your questions. And now… I have plenty of time to remain in this form. First, let me serve some tea.”

The Panrind went back behind the counter and exited through the back door.

Finally, Leeha and Blaugrunn calmed down a bit.

“Well, officially, it comes into effect today.”

The agreement with the Shazrashian President was signed today.

In other words, rumors had already spread. However, it didn’t mean they could let their guard down.

‘So, he was in disguise? But how did he transform—’

“Probably! Probably similar to that spirit. Just like how the necromancer’s spirit lingered on the surface without a body, that human also hid without any mana flow, right?”

As if agreeing with the thoughts that had been voiced, Blaugrunn quickly spoke up.

“Ah, aaah. That’s right.”

“Yeah, exactly. Perhaps the Polymorph just now is a means connected to that…!”

Witnessing the dragon’s excited chatter, Leeha nodded in agreement.

‘It was actually a more advanced camouflage than just blending in. At least physical attacks or skills can’t be avoided by me because they can touch me. But the White Reaper’s disguise surpasses that.’

Perhaps there was something beyond mere disguise.

While Leeha sorted out his thoughts, Panrind Tribe brought out three cups of tea.

“Though it may be presumptuous of me, I wish to express our deepest gratitude on behalf of our entire people.”

“No, it wasn’t a big deal.”

“What are you saying… It was such a significant deed for our people that even the spirit of Shimo, who passed away so long ago, lingered on. The fact that you accomplished that is―”

Tears welled up in Panrind Tribe’s eyes.

Leeha hurriedly waved his hand, worried the atmosphere might become too heavy.

“Oh no, not at all. I have much to learn and have learned much from the 〈Previous White Reaper〉. And, uh… may I ask your name―”

“Oh! My apologies for not introducing myself earlier. My name is Aner. I might be a bit unskillful, but I serve as a liaison.”

After managing to change the mood and finally introducing themselves, Leeha could converse with Aner.

When Leeha informed him that discrimination against minority groups had been legally prohibited, aner cried for a moment.

After waiting for that, Leeha and Blaugrunn could learn more about the Panrind Tribe people.

The surviving Panrind Tribe had all scattered, hiding their identities, and they possessed a ‘special technique’ for concealment.

That ‘special technique’ was passed down orally, but the record left by the person who taught it was still in their possession.

“Exactly that! That book! Can we see the book?”

“Yes, yes! Go and fetch it, human!”

As Leeha and Blaugrunn’s eyes sparkled again, aner looked troubled.

“I would love to show it to you right away, but unfortunately, I don’t have it with me.”

“Then―”

Shwaaa…!

A holographic window appeared in front of Leeha’s eyes.

『Panrind Tribe: The Truth』

Description: “The chairman of the Elders’ Council has that. Of course, he knows your name, Leeha. He eagerly awaits meeting you, so there should be no issues. Besides, now, Leeha, you are… our 〈White Reaper〉.”

Aner expressed boundless trust. Let’s come back here in ten days, peruse the records the Panrind Tribe people have kept, and find clues.

Content: Perusal of Panrind Tribe’s 〈Records〉 in 10 days

Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: Death of Panrind Tribe Aner within the period

Failure Note: Quest route deletion

Do you accept?

“Please give us just ten days. I will convene our scattered comrades across the country. Could you return here once again then?”

Leeha skimmed through the quest window. It wasn’t a particularly special quest.

Simply come back here in ten days, read through their records, and complete the quest.

‘But the hidden reward and the failure conditions… Those are the key points.’

The death of Panrind Tribe Aner? Does that mean someone is targeting this NPC?’

For the old Leeha, this would’ve been a nerve-wracking scenario, but not now.

He was confident in facing any adversary, even someone from Shazrasyan.

Leeha confidently pressed the accept button.

“Understood.”

“Thank you.”

“Oh, have there been any people targeting Aner recently?”

“Huh? What do you mean by that…?”

Aner tilted his head in confusion. Leeha dismissed it as nothing and whispered to Blaug-run.

―Blaugrunn-ssi.

―Yes?

―For the next ten days, protect the human named Aner thoroughly.

―… Is there something concerning you?

―No, it’s not that, but just in case. Anyway, you must be ‘thorough’. Got it?

Leeha winked at Blaug-run, and the boy nodded.

“Alright then, I’ll be off, mr. Aner.”

“Yes. Let me open the door for—”

“No, teleportation will do. See you in ten days.”

Leeha activated the crystal ball.

Blaug-run also teleported, synchronizing his timing with Leeha.

However, the dragon headed to the roof of the shop where Aner was.

―I will start the protection now.

―Okay.

The simpler the quest, the more cautious you should be.

Hoping that the uneasy feeling was just that, a feeling, Leeha moved on to meet Shimo.

‘Ten days, within which I will embody the qualities of the “White Reaper” even more.’

He would do his best to not only carry the name but also to match Shimo’s skills.

* * *

『Really!? Already—you found and met them already?』

“Yes. It seemed like there was no need for you to worry about them anymore. Their disguise skills were so good even a dragon would be shocked. Plus, the anti-discrimination law was enacted and takes effect from today, so there’s nothing to worry about from now on.”

The fact that one’s true form was hidden wouldn’t fall under the category of ‘living well.’

To avoid discrimination, showing a different race, which wasn’t a Giant or Lizardia but something else, gave an idea of the kind of discrimination and persecution faced in their true form as a Panrind.

However, Leeha spoke in a lighter tone to ease Shimo’s worries, and Shimo looked at Leeha with a moved expression.

『I knew you could do it, but this quickly… Truly, you are indeed like me.』

“If I’m like you, there’s something we must do next, right?”

Leeha smiled slyly, and the White Reaper regained his smile. The task ahead appeared before Leeha.

『White Reaper: Distorted Vision—1』

Description: “You know I could see the wind, right? But that’s not all. You might have guessed it, but… the reason I wasn’t fooled by your trickery was because of this eye. I shall give you my eye. However, you must prove with your own strength that you can effectively use it. Read the wind. Fire the bullet accordingly and hit the target.”

The White Reaper, Shimo, intended to pass on his eyeball. After passing his test.

Objective: Hit the target with a bullet that has endured wind speeds of over 40 m/s.

Attempt limit: 5

Reward: Skill—Distorted Vision (Passive)

『White Reaper: Non-existent Existence—2』

Condition for Failure: Exceed the attempt limit

Failure consequence: Deletion of the quest route

Do you accept?
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“… Huh?”

How cruel and terrifying the phrase “living up to one’s name” could be.

Ha Leeha blinked as he looked at the quest window.

He repeatedly wished he had seen it wrong.

* * *

《It’s a simple task. You just need to make the bullet hit the target while enduring wind speeds of 40 meters per second.》

Shimo said, tossing the words casually as he began to prepare something.

Even as he fumbled around and opened his mouth again to take out something from his chest, Ha Leeha couldn’t say anything.

《When you can read the invisible, you become able to see through all deceptions. Of course, you also need to develop the insight to see through such deceptions. Therefore, I will give you the target. Throw it towards a place where the wind blows. However, even if you are someone I cherish, I can’t give you more than five attempts―》

“No! Wait! Stop!”

Ha Leeha stretched out his hand towards Shimo, showing him his palm. In fact, Shimo’s words didn’t even make it into his ears.

“Wind speed of 40 meters per second― uh, excuse me? 40 m/s! That’s a massive typhoon level! No, a hurricane! Maybe even a tornado?!”

《That’s correct.》

Shimo tilted his head slightly as he looked at Ha Leeha, as if he was asking if something was wrong.

That reaction left Ha Leeha at a loss for words.

《It was the same when I first learned. The blizzards of my hometown, Panrind, are very fierce. It wasn’t until I managed to hit the target through a barrier of 47 meters per second that I realized myself as the ‘White Reaper.’ However, I won’t force you to face winds of 47 m/s.》

“… I see.”

Should he say, “Thank you very much for reducing it by about 7 meters per second”?

“Still, just a moment― uh, okay. I understand. But what’s with the five attempts?”


《This.》

Shimo handed something to Ha Leeha from his chest.

An item that a spirit could hand over directly?

With a heart pounding in anticipation, hoping it might be a hint for the quest, Ha Leeha received the item.

《Rare Animal Soul Stone (Non-transferable)》

Effect: Summons the soul of three animals (Usage limit: 5 times)

Description: A small stone that stores the souls of animals. When used, it summons one animal soul each from land, sea, and air.

“… What is this?”

《Among them, the land animals are the largest. When you find a spot where the wind speed meets the requirement, throw this Soul Stone towards it and hit the target corresponding to a land animal.》

“Did I hear that correctly?”

It was the kind of item that brought out his old military habits.

Instead of being a hint for the quest, it exponentially increased the quest’s difficulty!

The wind speed condition was a minimum of 40 m/s.

Finding such a spot was a task in itself, and even if found, he couldn’t just choose any random target.

‘No, of course, this is sniper training, so it’s understandable― but throwing this thing under such conditions― and hitting only the land animal among the randomly appearing souls!’

Isn’t that similar to distinguishing between terrorists and hostages in urban training for special forces?

Except Ha Leeha had to do it in a hurricane with wind speeds exceeding 40 m/s.

《Can you do it?》

But what could he do?

He couldn’t abandon the skills of the second transition after completing it, could he?


The reward for the quest was a passive skill, but then there appeared another sequential quest.

Until Ha Leeha absorbed all the skills of the White Reaper in order, he could never give up.

‘I have to… right? Yes. But, you’re not going to replace my eyes or anything, right?’

《Haha, of course not. I will simply transfer the essence of my eyes. It will be even easier with the dragon here.》

‘Understood.’

Ha Leeha pressed the accept button.

A strategy had already been formulated.

‘Ha, I guess there’s no other way now. I need to get the Harpy hat again. As long as I have the hat that ignores wind speed and direction—’

《You know that if you do anything to ignore the wind speed and direction, you won’t gain the eyes to read the wind, right?》

‘What? Oh, really?’

There was always someone better out there.

It took Ha Leeha about three minutes to regain his composure.

He had to scream internally enough before he could face reality.

* * *

“Isn’t this a bit too much? For one skill— just to learn a skill to read the wind— all this commotion?”

Ha Leeha kicked a pebble on the street.

Although the weather was clear and the temperature pleasant in Aelstock, the capital of Fibiel, unlike near Shazrashian, he felt no joy.

‘Why is it only me going through this? What about Kidd and Luger— yeah, what happened to those guys?’

Ha Leeha opened the teleport window of the Three Musketeers but made a disappointed face.

‘Nothing is available when you need it.’


Both were logged out.

Just as Ha Leeha had sacrificed his sleep and personal time to become the White Reaper, they too would have poured in their time and effort.

Of course, Ha Leeha hadn’t considered their efforts.

“When we caught the Manticore, Luger was already using that absurd anti-aircraft gun, so that’s one thing. But Kidd, his attacks were different from usual too.”

That would mean both had obtained basic skills at the very least, and both happened to be offensive skills!

“But me! Eyes— Eyes?! Ugh, never mind…”

What was the difference between those two and himself?

Ha Leeha suppressed his urge to roll on the street right then and there.

The reason for visiting the capital was not just to walk around.

He needed to find a suitable location and someone within Middle Earth to help him practice sniping, and fortunately, Ha Leeha knew an NPC much kinder than the White Reaper.

“Director!”

Ha Leeha’s steps lightened as he entered the Brown Bess Musket Academy.

Bang─────────…!

“Oh, new recruits are struggling today as well.”

Two users were grunting as they held muskets in the drill ground.

Considering that other career academy buildings were always swarming with 30 to 50 users every minute, every hour, it was an astonishingly small number, but to Ha Leeha, even they were a welcome sight.

In the director’s office, there was one more man than usual.

“Just do the usual. Make sure they get familiar with the musket as the basics of discipline, and there should be no problems.”

“Of course, senior.”

Ha Leeha scratched his head as he looked at the person addressing Browless as ‘senior’.

“I came to report that I’ve completed the transfer to the White Reaper, but it seems you don’t care. So, senior?”

“Are you Ha Leeha? I’ve heard a lot about you from Senior. I’m Flint.”

“Oh, yes. Hello, Flint-nim.”

The man greeted Ha Leeha first.

As Ha Leeha reflexively nodded back, Browless introduced the new man.

“This time, I will also be dispatched as a member of the Alliance. During that period, he will take care of the Academy. Though he joined as a rookie 20 years ago, he’s much more senior than you, Ha Leeha. Please treat him as you would treat me.”

“Oh, I see. Yes, of course.”

Ha Leeha nodded.

It was only natural that Browless was selected as a member of the Sacred Alliance.

‘To chase Elizabeth and Brown, someone like him is absolutely necessary.’

Since Browless couldn’t leave the Academy unattended, the character must have been newly dispatched from Middle Earth.

For a Musketeer to suddenly appear and start talking about seniority, it felt somewhat convenient to Ha Leeha. Yet, he was glad to meet an NPC with a similar vibe to Browless.

“I’m a bit busy right now with the handover. Is it something urgent?”

“No, it’s okay. I’ll come back later.”

“Thank you.”

Browless resumed his conversation with Flint, and Ha Leeha had to leave the office.

‘It’s a pity that he’s not very interested in me because it’s natural for him to be busy. Could it be because I’m no longer a Musketeer?’

Although it was the second job transfer for a Musketeer, he was now a proud White Reaper.

That’s precisely what he had come to report, but he couldn’t even get it out.

‘Did Luger and Kidd mention it? No, wait a minute. What are those guys’ second job names?’

As he pondered whether they had been here, a more fundamental question crossed Ha Leeha’s mind.

He had learned from Bottleneck that Luger had acquired a new skill called ‘Acht—Acht.’

But what were the names of Kidd and Luger’s second jobs?

Obviously, it wouldn’t be White Reaper, but there were too few clues to guess anything else.

While leaving the Academy, having gained nothing, he heard a loud voice from behind.

“Why are you so lifeless? Want to try some disciplining?”

“Hup!”

Ha Leeha turned around quickly.

There was only one person who would talk to him that way.

“Sergeant Kim!”

“From the look of you, it seems you failed? Hey, kid! Did you get beaten by Ha Leeha?”

A boyish, miaou tribe Musketeer was standing there, making a pun on Ha Leeha’s name.

Ha Leeha quickly grasped the situation.

The Middle Earth access device he saw at Sergeant Kim’s house was definitely not just for decoration.

A smile spread automatically across Ha Leeha’s face.

“Ha Leeha is definitely Ha Leeha. And now, Ha Leeha has truly become Ha Leeha.”

Then he drew a V-sign towards Sergeant Kim.

The boyish Miaou, who was filled with thoughts of teasing Ha Leeha, frowned.

* * *

“You’ve been given the nickname ‘White Reaper’?”

“It’s not just a nickname; it’s my official job title within the Middle Earth system.”

“…That’s ridiculous. Curve shot? How on earth do you even do that? I’ve been in and out of this training center countless times, and they’ve never taught anything like that here.”

Ha Leeha couldn’t help but feel a bit amused seeing the boyish face mismatched with the coarse tone. It always made him feel better to see the guy flustered.

“Oh, sergeant Kim, you wouldn’t stand a chance! I only learned it recently! What’s your level now—around 70?”

“This kid is a genius, huh? Yeah, I’m at 67.”

“Pfft.”

“Did you just laugh? Did you really just laugh at me?”

“No, no. You’ve leveled up quickly. You were a complete rookie last time.”

Last time, sergeant Kim’s level was barely around 20.

If he had cleared all the beginner quests from Candle Castle safely, he was probably around level 20 or so.

But now, if he had reached almost level 70, considering the inherent penalties of being a Musketeer, his leveling speed wasn’t slow at all.

“A rookie? Did this little punk just call me a rookie? If you wanna bet—…we should at least have similar guns. Hey, where did you get that gun? A Mark XV? The muzzle part looks a bit different, though.”

“Ah, you recognized it right away. But, sergeant, you won’t be able to get this gun.”

“This brat has been looking down on me from earlier!”

Sergeant Kim, fuming, grew more animated, and Ha Leeha diligently explained for him.

He debated whether to recount his whole grand Tale up to this point, especially the fact that only one such item existed in the game’s system.

So, now what was his problem?

“What is it? What’s bothering you?”

“Pardon?”

“You’re the White Reaper, you’ve got that ridiculous gun, and even the insane curve shot skill. So, why do you look so troubled? If you’re here at the training center brooding, it must be related to sniping, right?”

“…Are you a mind reader or something?”

“Just spill it, kid.”

Perhaps the relaxed atmosphere thanks to previous counseling sessions helped, or maybe Ha Leeha was now able to genuinely embrace Sergeant Kim’s advice.

With a lighter heart, Ha Leeha began explaining the quest given by the White Reaper.

Sergeant Kim’s face quickly grew sullen, which by itself proved the difficulty level of the quest.

“A wind speed of 40 meters per second?”

“Exactly.”

Ha Leeha sighed and continued.

“I’ve never attempted something like this before… Is it even possible? I mean, the muzzle velocity might allow it to penetrate a wind speed of 40 meters per second, but—”

“No, it won’t.”

“Excuse me?”

Sergeant Kim shook his head.

His face darkened momentarily but soon returned to normal.

“At much lower speeds, it swerves considerably. And you only get five chances? Do not attempt it without thorough practice.”

“Have you ever shot in such conditions before?”

“During a deployment in my sergeant days. There was a cyclone during one of our operations. It was an intermediate one, about 120 kilometers per hour—so, around 33 meters per second. You know me; I can’t hold back my curiosity. Since I couldn’t do it in Korea, I used the excuse of ‘preparing for sniper training in high winds’ to give it a shot there.”

“So, what happened?”

“I already told you. You mentioned curve shots, right? My shots back then were essentially curve shots. In fact, they swerved three or more times. I should probably call it a ‘dancing shot’ instead.”

Sergeant Kim didn’t mock Ha Leeha, saying things like ‘You’re bound to fail!’ or ‘Do you really think you can do it?’

He knew this quest was extraordinarily difficult to an extent it didn’t need to be pointed out.
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“Do you know? If wind speed exceeds 15 meters per second, it becomes nearly impossible to stand while holding an umbrella.”

“Yes. At 20 meters per second, even walking becomes difficult. Those who aren’t strong enough might just collapse.”

“At around 30 meters per second, even large trees can be bent over. You’ve seen it a lot on TV, right? They get completely uprooted.”

“……I know. Up to that point, at least…….”

Weather observations and examples of damage from different weather conditions were part of the basic training for snipers.

However, the training Ha Leeha received was based strictly on ‘Korean’ standards, where typhoon wind speeds were deemed to be up to 30 meters per second.

“But 40 meters per second…… ha ha, truly, a legendary sniper is indeed legendary. Hitting a target through a 47 meters per second wind? Damn it! Tell him I want a match with him next time!”

Sergeant Kim tried to lighten the mood intentionally, but Ha Leeha did not take it so easily.

He had suddenly realized the terror of winds at 40 meters per second.

‘Yes, I know this in theory. However, I’ve never shot in such conditions… Or perhaps, because of the Harpy’s Hat, I may have underestimated it until now.’

Hadn’t he hit targets even through the blizzard in the perpetual snow mountains?

Having that memory, did he subconsciously lower the quest’s difficulty?

Or was it a simple thought that a bullet with a muzzle velocity of 830 meters per second could easily pierce through a 40 meters per second wind?

“Phew… Above all, the unfortunate part is that there’s nowhere to test such conditions. As you know, we rarely experience typhoons or cyclones of that magnitude. Even if we practice a lot, we never know the outcome, and we can’t exactly create a typhoon.”

Sergeant Kim’s words mirrored Ha Leeha’s thoughts as he observed Ha Leeha’s serious expression.

Ha Leeha nodded in agreement with him.

“Yes, there is someone who can freely use a skill called Blizzard… but that causes snowstorms and ice blocks to fly around, which would obstruct the bullets. As for a profession like Windcaster, I don’t know anyone who can create a typhoon…”

Muttering, Ha Leeha’s eyes widened as he scanned his friend list.

“What is it? What’s up?”


“There is.”

“What is?”

“There is someone who can create those massive wind phenomena like typhoons, storms, cyclones, hurricanes, and tornados.”

Sergeant Kim’s expression mirrored Ha Leeha’s as he began chuckling.

“Haha, see, that’s why this game is interesting! So, who can create such things? It must be someone pretty impressive in this game world, right?”

“Yes, you’re right.”

Ha Leeha nodded.

“So, who is it?”

In response to Sergeant Kim’s query, Ha Leeha extended his finger and pointed at himself.

“Me.”

“Huh?”

Ha Leeha stood up.

As he moved, his coat fluttered.

Immediately activating the crystal ball, mana particles started converging.

“The clothes I’m wearing—or rather, there’s someone better than what I’m using! Whether they’re a person or a fish, it’s hard to say! Hahaha, sergeant, I need to go now!”

“You, you rascal! Hey! At least tell me who—no, what am I supposed to do for leveling up now? Give me some tips before you go!”

Sergeant Kim jumped up in surprise and tried to grab Ha Leeha’s coat, but Ha Leeha coldly shook off his hand.

“Sergeant, come on. Where are there tips for a sniper? You’ve always told me! Repeated training, mastery, until it comes out in my dreams, until it springs out as a spinal reflex, just practice and repeat practice! So, here I go!”

“You, you little rascal, getting revenge like this…! Hey! Hey! Ha Leeha!”

Swooosh…!


Sergeant Kim shouted Ha Leeha’s name until his voice cracked, but Ha Leeha was already gone.

Only the words that Sergeant Kim had drilled into Ha Leeha’s ears like a nail echoed back like a boomerang.

“… Damn kid. Finding the answer so quickly leaves no fun in teaching. Tch.”

Despite his grumbling, his face was bright.

He slung his musket over his shoulder and headed inside the academy.

“Hey, chief! What’s the next task you’re going to have me do?”

The 47-year-old, youthful-looking miyaw, called out to Browless with a hearty, middle-aged demeanor.

—

“You don’t have to be so conscious of it. It makes me more uncomfortable, really.”

“No, sir! Just failing to recognize you, sir Ha Leeha, one of the pioneers of the New Continent navigation, is already a disgrace. We will do our utmost to ensure your security while you are here!”

“That’s… what’s making me uncomfortable…”

Ha Leeha mumbled in a low voice, but the Fibiel knights remained unfazed.

The place he immediately flew to using the crystal ball was the center of the Sea of Dawn.

It was near the mana relay tower floating on a “buoy”.

It was a place that NPC knights from various nations monitored vigorously 24/7, and because Ha Leeha appeared so suddenly, there was a brief commotion as they perceived him as a threat.

“I’m glad to see your dedication to your duties. With such zeal, Kaztor would not be able to get through.”

“Of course! We maintain strict vigilance, fully aware that we represent Fibiel, ensuring we never―”

“Oh, is he finally here?”

Ha Leeha lightly got up from the rock he was sitting on. The NPC knight, who had been answering loudly, clicked his tongue in dissatisfaction.

While one reason they strictly guarded this area was to protect the mana relay tower, another significant reason was to keep an eye out for the still-unfound Kaztor.


After the event where Kaztor assassinated the Pope, the surveillance force had increased more than fivefold, which made the latter reason even more critical.

‘Anyway, unless it’s stored in a crystal ball, it’s impossible to reach the New Continent without passing through here. Everyone assumed Kaztor would inevitably pass through here… Was that a miscalculation? Does that mean he’s still hiding in the Old Continent?’

Ha Leeha tilted his head in doubt.

Before long, violent spray from the sea near the buoy started to rise. At the same time, the surrounding NPCs became frantic, shouting and moving around.

“Everyone, prepare for battle! Battle positions―”

“There’s an attack coming from the sea! Prepare magical casting―”

“No, no. As I told you earlier, someone I know is arriving, so there’s no need for that.”

Ha Leeha quieted them down.

Soon after, two pillars rose up from the sea in front of the buoy.

The white and black pillars shone brilliantly. However, it wasn’t the surface of the pillars that made the knights wary but the fierce eyes at the tops of the pillars.

“Wow, they always look amazing. Was it Svalt and Hvit? Ah, it’s been a while! Captain Drake!”

“……Do you still call me Captain?”

“Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha!”

“Oh, anderson! Your attire has changed, hasn’t it?!”

The two emerging pillars were the White and Black Serpents.

The one riding them was Drake, who used to be in the Dragon Palace and had now spent considerable time as part of the Sea God’s Guard.

Ha Leeha waved cheerfully at the merfolk NPCs he hadn’t seen in a long time.

The serpents raised Drake onto the buoy, resting him on their heads.

Unlike the other merfolk, drake, who had legs, stood proudly on the buoy.

“It’s been a while.”

“Indeed. I couldn’t keep in touch. Have you been well?”

“As long as the purification pool is safe, we are always doing well. The new exchanges with the Water Essences you introduced us to are also becoming more active.”

“Water— Oh! Golden Carp, shiore. Haha, it’s great to hear good news. By the way, the reason I contacted you is…”

After exchanging brief greetings with Drake, Ha Leeha took off his coat.

“—so, over there, make sure the buoy remains unaffected while creating a typhoon exceeding 40 meters per second. You can do it, right?”

“……You say that after handing me your coat?”

Drake responded curtly, but he didn’t seem displeased. He would certainly grant Ha Leeha’s request, and besides, seeing the coat again after a long time made him happy.

Furthermore, the more detailed appearance of Jellypong, who revealed itself as Ha Leeha took off his coat, was enough to catch Drake’s attention.

“The meta— Water Spirit seems to have grown a lot.”

“Ah, Jellypong? Yes. We’ve been through all sorts of adventures together.”

『Meong!』

When Drake reached out, Jellypong’s hand— which always seemed grotesque to Ha Leeha— grew out from Ha Leeha’s neck to clasp Drake’s hand.

Drake, for a moment, wore the face of an adult holding a baby’s fingers, then turned his body.

“Anderson!”

“Yes, Prince!”

“I’ll allow it. Stay here and assist Ha Leeha until he’s satisfied.”

“Understood!”

Anderson leaped from the serpent’s back into the sea. Ha Leeha quickly approached Drake and whispered,

“Captain? Uh— It’s great if Anderson helps, but, you see, to create a typhoon of 40 meters per second…”

Considerable mana was required.

The skill 〈Perfect Storm〉 determined the intensity and size of the storm based on the amount of mana infused.

The reason Ha Leeha called Drake instead of doing it himself was to save mana and for continuous practice.

Ha Leeha assumed Anderson hadn’t reached that level yet, but Drake just smiled.

“He always said he wished he could have been of help back then.”

“Pardon?”

“Although he remains clumsy, it might be you, Ha Leeha, who awakened his mana talent.”

Shhhhhh……! A spray of water erupted as someone leapt onto the shore.

Just moments ago, andersson had been whipping his fish-like lower body, swimming through the sea, but now he stood on the ground with sturdy legs.

“…Merman transformation― no, should I say human transformation?”

Ha Leeha’s eyes widened in surprise as Drake tapped his shoulder a couple of times.

“In terms of mana skills alone, he’s right after Seabream among the Sea God’s Royal Guard.”

Who was Seabream? He was the very captain of the Sea God’s Royal Guard. And Andersson had mana skills second only to his? That too, enough for Drake to assert it?

Hearing that quiet praise, Ha Leeha felt a thrilling sensation for some reason.

The little kid who once collapsed, pleading to save the Dragon Palace, was no longer there.

“Anderson! I’m counting on you!”

Anderson still looked awkward even after receiving Drake’s coat. His relatively small stature didn’t balance well with it, but even Ha Leeha could sense the tremendous mana particles concentrated around Andersson.

“Then, I’ll create it as per your conditions right away. 〈Perfect Storm〉!”

Rumble───────…!

The sea not too far from the buoy began to churn with dark clouds looming overhead.

“The mana settings imply a typhoon with a wind speed of around 41m per second. Although the intensity is high, I’ve minimized the size, keeping it close to the buoy with a fixed position. But since it’s still a typhoon, it can’t be too small… This should hold for three days and nights.”

“Whoa…”

Even an NPC merman with as much mana finesse as Ram Hwajung was smiling brightly at Ha Leeha.

The point where the eye of the typhoon formed was about 3km from the buoy.

The typhoon, accompanied by winds of 41m per second, had an eye with a radius of merely 2.5km.

In other words, the distance from the buoy where Ha Leeha stood to the boundary satisfying the quest condition was only 500m.

“I guess I can just practice shooting from here…”

Ha Leeha’s hair fluttered in the wind.

He took out the Black Bass, inserted a magazine, and quickly fired a shot.

Bang────────!!

“Wow, what the heck is that?!”

Ha Leeha shouted as he watched the bullet fly.

The bullet twisted in flight in a way that was hilariously absurd.

‘Three days and nights… That’s ten days until the Pandrils gather.’

Ha Leeha’s aim was to complete as many quests as possible within that time. However, the current situation wasn’t something to be overly ambitious about.

‘Just this one. Finish it perfectly.’

Now wasn’t the time to use the Animal Soul Stone for real combat. He needed to first enhance his ability to read the wind.

When he could read the gaps in the wind and guide his bullets through them.

‘Then, the quest will be complete.’

The solo quest, 〈White Reaper〉, one that could never be solved by one person alone, was about to begin its serious progression.
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“On duty, no unusual activity!”

“Hmm, anything unusual―”

“…”

“―at all?”

The knight NPC momentarily flinched, but he didn’t interrupt his speech. His subordinate, another NPC, nodded in response.

“No, sir.”

“Good. Even though tomorrow morning is the departure ceremony for the 〈Sacred Alliance〉, and things might be a bit chaotic, stay calm and―”

─────────────…….

“―remain diligent in your duties.”

“Yes, sir!”

The guard captain NPC of Fibiel nodded as he listened to his subordinates’ fervent responses. Then he drew out a crystal ball and, after a brief pause, began to speak again.

“By the way, is he still at it?”

The guard captain NPC cautiously pointed to one side.

The knight NPCs, wearing troubled expressions, nodded in agreement.

“Yes… except for briefly joining us during meal times, he hasn’t slept at all―”

─────────────…….

A gunshot resounded loudly.

“―It’s been over 30 hours now…”

“Can’t you try to stop him, captain? At first, we thought it might help stay awake, but now it’s driving us crazy! How is it that he seems completely fine…?”


The relentless training was so rigorous that even the knight NPCs standing guard started to complain.

Although it was enough to make NPCs gossip behind his back, Ha Leeha, the person in question, couldn’t have cared less. No, he completely ignored them.

“Ah, this is seriously infuriating. No, it’s not just that I’m missing; the shots aren’t even reaching their mark.”

Ha Leeha sighed as he plopped down.

Continuous practice and mastery were supposed to be the key. He had started relentless training, but there was a fundamental doubt whether this quest could be completed through sheer training alone.

‘I managed to read the wind. I even tried using a 〈Curve Shot〉 to counteract the deviating points, but it’s no good. The problem is that the wind doesn’t blow consistently in one direction; there are points where winds collide and create gusts.’

A typhoon with a speed of 41 meters per second was indeed no joke.

If the wind rotated unidirectionally, it would be easy, but typhoons didn’t work that way.

Inside the typhoon, winds of various sizes and directions clashed, preventing Ha Leeha from controlling the bullets as he wished.

“Literally a 〈Dancing Shot〉. Ah, I wanted to see the departure ceremony tomorrow too.”

Several whispers from Shin Nara and many users had come, but Ha Leeha successfully resisted all those temptations.

‘Well, it’s less about resisting and more about being driven by desperation…’

He sighed again, removed the magazine, and, pulling out a cloth and cleaning rod from his bag, began to clean the muzzle of his Black Bass.

Apart from ‘reading’ the wind, all he had been doing was firing his gun, so even the Black Bass needed proper maintenance.

“Are you alright, Ha Leeha?”

It was the commander of the guard, who had been listening to the grievances of the knights’ NPCs, who approached Ha Leeha and greeted him.

Ha Leeha glanced at him and smiled warmly.

“Oh, yes! Haha, but since I can’t handle things quickly, it’s nice to see your face after a long time. Should I call you Sir Syndergard—no, commander?”

“You can call me whatever is comfortable for you. For now, it depends on the will of Ha Leeha-nim, a lord of Fibiel.”

The commander spoke humbly, and Ha Leeha made space for him to sit by moving aside.


Ha Leeha patted the commander’s shoulder amiably as he sat beside him.

“Oh, come on, no need to say such things. How many times have you helped, from Koma—no, Brown bear incident to the Royal Archive days?”

Isn’t he one of the few NPCs whose name he knew perfectly?

Once a knight of the Sacred Order and now appointed as the general commander of Fibiel’s guard, the knight NPC was none other than Syndergard.

Due to his long-standing association with Ha Leeha, the latter was genuinely happy to learn about his promotion here.

‘Haha, Nara had once lamented, thinking they had lost a talented individual.’

As Ha Leeha laughed, recalling a time when he exchanged whispers with Nara, syndergard asked,

“Is there any good news?”

“Oh, no. Just reminiscing about the old times. As you can see, things aren’t going well here.”

Ha Leeha grumbled, pointing towards a distant storm on the sea.

Understanding why Ha Leeha was there, syndergard merely nodded.

“To challenge and defy nature without the power of mana… I’m simply amazed.”

“Ha, even with praise, I can’t skip my night practice. I’m sorry; I know it’s tough for everyone.”

Sensing Syndergard’s intent, Ha Leeha quickly brought up the main topic, but Syndergard waved it off.

“No. For today and tomorrow, feel free to shoot as you please without any concerns.”

“Huh? Why?”

“Isn’t it the inauguration ceremony of the ‘Sacred Alliance’? Only a small number of us, including myself, will remain here; the rest will proceed with our home country’s schedule for the next two days.”

“Oh! That’s right. Indeed, guarding His Majesty the King is a much more important duty.”

The grand inauguration ceremony held in Aeswen was an event all nations participated in.

With the heads of each nation attending, security was bound to be tighter than ever.


‘Especially since it’s the place where the Kaztor incident happened.’

Since players started participating in Middle Earth’s lore, the heads of each nation had never officially gathered in one place.

The only time it happened was during the Kaztor incident, which was handled as an unofficial event.

Hence, the players of Middle Earth judged that this ‘official’ event would not only enhance security but also be conducted befitting its title.

‘The community is buzzing, saying it’s going to be like a massive festival.’

How grand would it be for all the kings to gather? Yet, Ha Leeha couldn’t attend.

“Well then, I have to go back to practice.”

“Oh, yes. I feel like I took up your time.”

“No way. Talking with Commander Syndergard is enjoyable, and I feel like I’m the one taking up your time.”

Isn’t there a duty of guarding?

With Ha Leeha subtly throwing a playful jab, syndergard also smiled sheepishly.

“Haha, indeed. Then I shall return to my duty of guarding the Mana Relay Tower and, of course, Ha Leeha-nim, the lord of Fibiel.”

“Heh, it felt like I became someone amazing. Well then, please take care of me.”

As Syndergard left, Leeha lifted the Black Bass again. Even though Anderson was knocked out, the typhoon hadn’t disappeared.

Tuquaaa─────!!

The bullet shot out.

It was a tracer bullet that was clearly visible even in the dark night, but within the typhoon of the night sky, it fluttered and failed to hit its mark properly.

‘Still, it’s nice that the Bottleneck has become legendary.’

Leeha sighed with a bitter smile and pulled the bolt again.

“Read the wind… You need to read the flow of that massive typhoon that even a bullet moving at the speed of 830m/s. And you have to hit a single target caught in it.”

Could he do it?

This time, even Leeha began to think of the term “Mission: Impossible.”

Once the bullet started getting swept away by the wind, it rapidly lost kinetic energy. After a few whirls, it would become just another floating debris within the typhoon.

‘In the end, to hit the target I want, at the moment I want, it means… avoiding wind interference.’

Shooting at a mass of a typhoon moving at 41m/s without the wind interfering? Is that even possible?

‘It’s a paradox. It doesn’t make any sense.’

Leeha aimed at the spot where the dark clouds were gathered.

There were ‘traces’ of the wind like lashing rain or seawater surging backward, but he still couldn’t see the wind itself.

“Read the wind… the wind… And understand the paradox as it is.”

He couldn’t think that it was impossible. He had to believe it was possible.

How could he avoid wind interference?

If he could read the wind, could he avoid its interference?

“I see.”

Leeha nodded.

He still couldn’t see a solution.

However, he had a vague sense of what ability the test was aiming to develop.

“Not to be interfered? Then I just have to avoid it.”

He needed to read the wind.

If he could read the wind, he could find a point unaffected by it.

─────────────…….

The gunfire echoed.

Knowledge and experience were different. The tracer bullet’s beam was dancing.

* * *

The Ezwenn Papal Plaza was already crowded with people.

Like the expression “a wave of people”, it was filled to the brim with users and NPCs, causing Luger to click his tongue in frustration.

“Tsk tsk, wanting to attend even like that? It’s ridiculous.”

“What’s more ridiculous is your presence here, Luger.”

“I-I only came because the major is attending! And there’s a rumor that Alexander, the bastard, might show up after a long time as well—”

Luger frantically looked around after Kidd’s criticism. Kidd, seeing Luger like that, smirked instead.

“The major and Alexander have been inside the Papacy for a long time. If you needed to see him, you would have followed them inside by now. There’s no reason for you to be on this balcony that overlooks the whole plaza of the Papacy.”

Just before the start of the inauguration ceremony, Browless had entered the Papacy with Alexander and Bailefus.

Moreover, when Alexander descended gracefully with Bailefus over the Papacy, the users’ awe momentarily shook the place called Eswen.

And now he’s looking for Alexander in that situation?

“So what—who—do you think I’m looking for!?”

“Isn’t it obvious? The person you have been frantically searching for… Ha Leeha isn’t coming.”

Kidd had already figured out Luger’s true intentions.

“What!? You— you think I’d waste even a second looking for Ha Leeha—…! Huh? But how did you know? That Ha Leeha wouldn’t be coming?”

Luger, who was flailing wildly at Kidd’s sharp observation, tilted his head in confusion.

“Ahem.”

Kidd pulled his hat down and coughed awkwardly before walking back into the building. As Luger was left alone on the balcony, his eyes gradually widened.

“… That guy… While he was waiting too. His pretenses are as dark as usual.”

The reason Kidd could figure it out was because he had been on the same balcony, looking around for the same reason as Luger.

Leaving behind the two, who, being excited about their second job advancement, were showing off, the inauguration ceremony of the “Sacred Alliance” finally began.

As the doors of the Papacy opened, trumpets sounded, and the highest representatives from each nation, including the Pope, appeared.

—Waaaaaaaaa────!

—It’s Alexander─────────!

—Lee Jiwon is here too!

—Both of them look different somehow—

—Oh! Ram Hwayeon’s here! Ram Hwayeon!

—What’s with that monkey next to her?

—That’s paleo! From the New Continent!

The event became lively as the highest officials, including kings and presidents, the NPCs who would effectively lead the “Sacred Alliance”, and the key users who would play significant roles in the union made their appearances.

Since the plaza of the Papacy couldn’t accommodate everyone, even the field outside the Papacy had been equipped with real-time mana broadcast equipment, making it inevitable.

From those live-streaming through Y-Tube, recording this historical moment, to those wandering around just to observe other users’ reactions – everyone, nPC or user, was engrossed in the event.

“Kijung See is always the coolest at times like this.”

“Heh, you’re clearly smitten.”

“What? What did you say, biemy?”

“Oh, nothing at all.”
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The special forces barely managed to secure a spot in the square to observe the event, while Kijung, a Holy Knight and a second-class transferee, stood guarding the Pope alongside the Paladins.

“Oh, come to think of it… Didn’t Alexander and Lee Jiwon say they did something last time?”

To intervene and stop Bobae and Biyemi from bickering, Tale subtly joined the conversation to change the atmosphere.

“Kik, you remember.”

“Can you tell us what that was?”

Biyemi nodded but did not fully answer Tale’s question.

No, there was no need. Biyemi simply raised his finger to point at the podium.

“They’re going to show it now.”

“Hmm?”

With the introductions of each king and the Pope’s speech finished, the importance of the “Sacred Alliance” was being discussed.

Alexander, Lee Jiwon, and Fernand, who stood beside them, stepped forward one by one.

『―Therefore, this union aims for the peaceful development between the continents of Erika and Lope. Here, these three guides take on the significant mission of proving the existence of a deity. I believe the Supreme Deity Ahlo would be hoping for his children to come across the Sea of Dawn. It’s a floating island that even an Ancient Dragon cannot enter without the proper qualifications.』

“Huh?”

“What― what? Where?”

The square bustled with unrest.

Few fully understood the Pope’s speech, but at least some users grasped what he mentioned.

All the special forces members fixed their gaze on Biyemi.

“Kik, indeed, being rank 1 and 2 isn’t for nothing. When did they manage to recruit the ‘Pioneer King’ and conduct that three-player play?”

This was the intelligence Biyemi had heard through Petyr.


It also explained why Alexander and Lee Jiwon, along with Lark, could not respond to requests for help.

They were exploring non-teleportable regions, places no other user had visited before.

“A new map!?”

“And… a floating island!?”

『Entering that place, ‘Laputa’, is also a critical task for our union!』

The Pope’s voice was louder than ever.

A large floating island had been discovered far in the southeastern part of the new continent.

* * *

The commotion in the square hardly subsided.

While Alexander maintained a stiff posture on the podium, Lee Jiwon stood with one leg out, wearing an expression full of complaints.

“Wow, the Pope just drops all the info I barely earned while getting my head cracked open. His aggro is seriously insane.”

“Watch your mouth, Lee Jiwon.”

“You’re acting like a saint now, but weren’t you going crazy with anger just yesterday? Your sudden change in attitude is almost like Woody—”

“‘Those without qualifications cannot enter Laputa.’ Are you saying this after confirming that phrase yourself, Lee Jiwon?”

As Lee Jiwon tried to provoke Alexander, Bailephus, who had transformed into human form, intervened.

“Yeah, yeah~ Golden lizard, keep your mouth shut~ You thought you were invincible just because you’re Ancient-grade, but your mentality is shattered, huh? You couldn’t even break one barrier~ When asked to use the tracking skill, you failed miserably~ Let it go, let it go—”

“… Dare you mock me.”

Of course, he couldn’t engage in a war of words with Lee Jiwon.

When veins bulged on Bailephus’ forehead, fernand quickly whispered.

“P-please, all three of you, stop. Everyone is watching us move our mouths.”


“Fernand is right. Although it is regrettable that we missed the floating island, I believe that with the rewards for our exploration and the Pope’s support, we will certainly be able to enter next time.”

“Yeah~ Don’t lie~ The Golden lizard couldn’t sense holy power, and my detection didn’t find any holy power either. It’s clear it has no connection with Ezwen~”

Lee Jiwon stuck out his tongue and continued to provoke Alexander, but he remained silent.

This moment revealed how difficult the struggles they had faced so far were, and how little information they currently had about the floating island.

They had tried various methods to enter Laputa, but none had worked.

They always received the same response: to obtain qualifications.

In the end, all their hard work amounted to very little knowledge.

“Haaa… How did we find it in the first place? Trying to find that island again is genuinely absurd.”

Moreover, as the term “floating island” suggested, it floated high in the sky, moving freely. Once they lost track of its location, it was incredibly challenging to find it again.

Bailephus and Fernand’s stiff expressions while listening to Lee Jiwon’s lament were proof of this.

No tracking magic or skill had worked on it, and being above the clouds made it barely visible from the ground.

Keeping an eye on the island from the sky with the naked eye was also not easy.

“How are we supposed to find something we can’t even see? The Pope conveniently left this part out. Of course, mentioning it would have been a buzzkill.”

Essentially, the island blended so well with its surroundings that it appeared almost indistinguishable from the sky.

Just as Lee Jiwon had pointed out, the Pope had omitted these parts from his speech.

There was neither the time nor the need to reveal everything during the inauguration speech, anyway.

Currently, what was important was the organizational structure of the countries attending the Sacred Alliance and hearing each representative’s resolve.

After numerous power struggles between Fibiel and Minis, the final Supreme Commander, “Fox of the Prairie” Awin, was delivering the meaning of the Sacred Alliance with a cunning smile.

His words did not include terms like the Demon King’s Fragments, the Human-Demon War, monsters, or Kaztor’s pursuit.

However, words like “protection from threats”,


“a safe and peaceful future”, and “continental territory defense for constructive development” essentially conveyed the same idea.

“Seriously… Among NPCs, he’s the best talker. I wonder how exhausting it must be to work under him.”

“Does Lark ever feel that way?”

“Nara, you know this by now, listening yourself. There aren’t many like him in Fibiel, right? Ugh, should I naturalize in Fibiel?”

Lark and Shin Nara were also standing nearby, leading their respective knight orders close to the platform.

At such a close distance that they could whisper, a representative from Shazrashian was also present.

In Shazrashian, members known as “legislators” were often elected based on their military prowess, essentially making them a power group capable of fulfilling knightly duties on their own.

“Shin Nara, Lark, and Ram Hwayeon… In terms of strength, Ram Hwajung is just as strong as her sister, but politically, the older sister has the upper hand.”

Karelin herself could also befriend them.

She had the position and power to do so, but having a middleman certainly made things more convenient.

He wondered if the person who could bridge the gap had come here, so he opened his friend’s window, but all it showed was Ha Leeha’s location: Dawning Sea.

“―As agreed by the representative of paleo from the continent of Erika―!”

Currently, almost all the people Ha Leeha knew were gathered at the Ezwen Papal court.

“―We hereby declare the establishment of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉!”

And there, the largest event in Middle Earth was held. Buffs flowed into the bodies of all the attendees.

“Alright! I feel so pumped up! Shouldn’t we start moving quickly?”

“Hehe, as soon as Gibred arrives, we’ll get a call, so it’s fine. Just for today―”

“We can’t just stand around. The official dispatch from each country starts tomorrow morning, so if we endure today, the personnel monitoring the forest of the Corrupted World Tree will significantly increase. Let’s endure today.”

Hyein raised her staff while embracing the shoulders of Biyemi, who was trying to leave quietly.

Except for a very few who were clearly aware of their duties, today was bound to be full of excitement and anticipation.

At the very moment that the honor guards and various knight orders of each country celebrated the establishment of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉.

There was someone who targeted that very moment.

* * *

Twukwaaaaa――――!

“Ugh, it’s not working. Is it even possible to see the crevice in the wind? Anderson! What do you think?”

“Hmm, maybe it’s similar to feeling a current?”

Anderson jumped toward the sea.

In an instant, his legs transformed into a mermaid’s tail.

“Like this! Like this! Ha Leeha, you can also transform into a mermaid!”

“…Is it as easy as you say? Besides, even if I turn into a mermaid, I can’t feel such things. Maybe I could feel it if I turned into something that could fly?”

Using the skill 〈Eagle’s Eye〉, he actively observed the typhoon, but nothing came into view.

Even if it was a close angle, it was 500 meters away from where Ha Leeha was, and it was impossible to sense anything detailed from such a distance.

“Well, there’s nothing I can do about it. The answer is to shoot more on days when I’m less noticeable. Alright, I can see the wind. I can see the wind, the wind is visible.”

Ha Leeha hypnotized himself as he aimed at the typhoon. The scope had already been removed.

Twukwaaaaa――――!

The rapidly flying beam of light disappeared with a swish, shaking as it went.

Ha Leeha clicked his tongue.

‘First, I need to control the wind. Then I need to approach the typhoon, use the Animal Soul Stone, and get into practice. Hmm, I can’t even read the flow of the wind properly, let alone get closer―’

Suddenly, something came to Ha Leeha’s mind.

‘No, that’s not it. I need to approach it to feel something, right?’

Reading the flow of the wind from a distance of 500 meters?

No matter how strong a typhoon with a speed of 41 meters per second, at 500 meters away, it would just cause a little fluttering of hair.

It was an absurdly far distance to read the ‘space’ where the bullet had to penetrate and move.

“Damn it! Staying far away out of fear backfired, didn’t it? I should have practiced up close first! Anderson, can you keep the typhoon going even if we go closer over there?”

“Of course!”

“Great! Then could you keep an eye on the surroundings while I practice?”

“Understood!”

Anderson smiled as if happy to sail the seas with Ha Leeha again.

Ha Leeha quickly gathered his items and opened his skill window. Just as he was about to jump into the sea, he thought of someone.

“Oh right, I should inform them. Sir Syndergard! Guard Captain!”

Ha Leeha stood at the end of the buoy.

The guards were stationed in the central area of the buoy to protect the mana relay tower as their top priority.

Ha Leeha wanted to report to them in advance in case the NPCs would look for him or worry.

“I’m going to be off to the sea for a bit, so if you don’t see me— Wor… Syndergard!”

Ha Leeha immediately pulled out the Black Bass he had stored.

What he saw near the mana relay tower were 12 corpses that had turned ash-gray.

Rustle—

At that moment, a sound emerged near the mana relay tower.

“Who’s there! 〈Mana Clairvoyance〉!”

Swoosh—!

Ha Leeha directed his skill toward the sound’s direction and aimed his gun.

Then, he immediately pulled the trigger towards the silhouette moving through the bushes.

Boom────!!

A rough scream echoed from the bushes.

The moment Ha Leeha heard that voice, his hair stood on end. It was a voice tone he had unmistakably heard before.

‘No way…?!’

Who could have possessed such skill to overpower someone of Syndergard’s caliber without any resistance?

Who would target the guards of the mana relay tower?

Why would someone loiter near the mana relay tower?

‘They intend to use the mana relay tower… to link their mana.’

Someone with formidable skills, yet who ‘had to’ link their mana through the mana relay tower.

Among those Ha Leeha knew with such conditions, there was only one person.

“Kaztor────! Jellypong, 〈Combat Mode: Agility〉! Follow!”

『Myong!』

At the time when everyone’s guard was down due to the matters of the 《Sacred Alliance》, Kaztor began to move.
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‘Why Kaztor all of a sudden?’

『Meowow-!』

Jellypong leapt off Leeha’s body and dashed away in an instant.

With a much quicker movement than when it had moved with Leeha using three-dimensional mobilization, the essence of the sea god delved into the bushes, immediately pursuing the Dark Elf mage.

‘Where has he been hiding all this time, and why now… Or perhaps, he’s been waiting for this moment?’

『Myong myong!』

Leeha also moved hastily.

Amidst the commotion of Jellypong’s furious sounds and Kaztor’s voice mixing together, a giant black circle began to form within the bushes.

“That can’t happen!”

*Thuddddddd─!*

Leeha fired a bullet.

Though it had not yet reached the bushes, that wasn’t an issue.

Through mana sight, he had a perfect read on Jellypong and was beginning to decipher Kaztor’s movements as well.

‘This isn’t the same mana as before. Something is interwoven here.’

Inside Kaztor’s silhouette, Leeha could clearly see a maelstrom of knotted mana.

His bullet pierced right through Kaztor’s thigh.

『Soul Link! Kidd, kill the Dark Elf! Take me with you!』

『Grooarrrr-grooo!』

The kid spirit immediately merged with a fire spirit and lifted Leeha.


The forming mass of dark mana was gradually diminishing, thanks to Leeha’s piercing attack and Jellypong’s relentless interference.

*Snap!*

Breaking through the bush, escaping from the central part of the floating beacon, Leeha could now see clearly with his regular vision, not just mana sight.

“Kaztor─────! 『Familiar—”

Leeha was watching Kaztor, but Kaztor was not looking at him.

Not wanting to waste a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity, Leeha sent off a bullet first.

*Bam!*

“Ha-haa, Leeha, Leeha, how can you be here now!”

“That’s what I want to ask you! Where have you been hiding until now—”

Kaztor’s body, which had been relentlessly creating mana spikes, was flung through the air.

The spot Leeha’s attack pierced still had a gaping hole with black energy seeping out.

However, Jellypong’s expression did not look good, and the essence of the sea god was fading in color, a matter of concern.

“—He has concealed himself! Jellypong, Koma, let’s get him!”

『Grr!』

『Myong!』

As Koma called Jellypong, the energies of the two spirits merged into one.

The creature that once terrified the giants was reborn to chase after Kaztor again.

“You still don’t like me, do you?”

“I have no reason for me like you! 『Multi-Warhead Shot』.”

*Thuddddd-!*


As soon as Ha Leeha’s words ended, Kaztor brought his hands together and cleaved vertically.

A black fissure, just large enough to cover Kaztor’s body, opened, letting the barrage of multi-warhead bullets rain in, but that was all.

“Hmm?”

The bullets were sucked into a point above Kaztor’s head, disappearing into the sea.

“What was that―”

“I am not the weakened me you knew. Do you really think someone like you can defeat me?”

Despite being hit twice in a surprise attack, Kaztor was different from before.

Unlike the previous battle that began with a sudden headshot, he was now highly energized.

Effortlessly dodging the oncoming attack of Koma merged with Jellypong, Kaztor ascended into the air.

Ha Leeha continued to aim and fire bullets at him, whispering as he did.

―Blaugrunn-ssi! I found Kaztor! Can you come right away?

―What? I can come, but― what about the protection of this guy?

‘Damn… Aner!’

There was still an uncertain quest to be completed.

What if Aner died in the brief moment Blaugrunn left? The 『Truth of Panrind』 quest would fail.

Although Kaztor aimed at Ha Leeha from mid-air, he could not escape Koma who possessed tremendous jumping ability thanks to merging with Jellypong.

Even then, his eyes were fixed on the mana relay tower.

Ha Leeha did not miss that scene.

‘The mana link isn’t working. When I arrived― he was in the middle of doing that.’

That meant he could not teleport to the New Continent in one go.


Being an NPC with no other option but direct teleportation and not using a warp gate, Kaztor was effectively tied down from going to the New Continent.

‘I must catch him.’

Ha Leeha immediately sent whispers to everyone he knew.

With a creature fused by fire and water spirits attacking from close range and endless shots from afar, Kaztor had only one choice.

“Damn, since I’ve come this far, it doesn’t matter.”

He changed direction at once.

“Wait, hold on a sec!”

Then he flew towards the east, towards the direction of the New Continent.

“You cursed bastard! You are so eager to kill me― Jellypong, come back! We’re going after him, ‘Mermaid Transformation! Tuna Form!’”

Ha Leeha did not have flying skills. However, this was the sea.

Unlike on land, he could follow in the sea. Ha Leeha’s lower half transformed into that of a bluefin tuna.

With the upper half of a human and the capacity to reach speeds of up to 160 km/h underwater, Ha Leeha cut through the sea at an incredible speed.

* * *

―Ha Leeha-ssi! Ha Leeha-ssi?!

―No, Blaugrunn-ssi, focus on protecting Aner for now. I’ll fly over if the worst happens.

―Understood. But please do not overdo it. That dark elf’s mana… I found it quite peculiar. It might be best to avoid getting too close to it.

Blaugrunn was worried, but Ha Leeha had no choice in the matter.

‘Indeed, he will go to the New Continent!’

Living on the Old Continent would have been impossible for Kaztor after everything was revealed.

The only card he could rely on was the Magic Marksman.

Therefore, moving to the New Continent was almost a given, and numerous users and NPCs had already tried to block the way.

“No matter what, how could he have hidden until now!” A wounded beast did not move. Not until it had fully recovered.

To Ha Leeha’s eyes, the sight of the flying Kaztor seemed like that.

The gaping wounds on Kaztor’s body were now completely healed.

Kaztor’s appearance was immaculate, without a hint of disarray.

“Kaztor!”

───────────────!

Ha Leeha fired a shot as he shouted, but Kaztor’s rear was already shielded by a black barrier.

Ting—the bullet deflected off, making Ha Leeha grit his teeth.

‘The wind—my moving speed… it’s too fast.’

How many miles per hour were they moving?

Utilizing the caudal fin like a jet boat skimming the water surface, Ha Leeha swam, while Kaztor, slightly ahead, evaded and flew.

Hitting a target under such circumstances was nearly miraculous.

‘I need to reduce the speed. But how—’

Ha Leeha glanced back.

Jellypong was moving Koma using its tentacles, but it couldn’t keep up with Ha Leeha and Kaztor’s speed.

In Ha Leeha’s peripheral vision, a dark cloud caught his attention.

The hurricane created by Anderson was moving in the direction of Kaztor and Ha Leeha’s path.

—Anderson!

—Y-Yes!? Ha Leeha, why suddenly—

—Cancel that typhoon! Make the biggest and strongest one! Do you understand? Make sure the strongest typhoon hits 2 kilometers ahead of my position. Can you locate me?

—I—I can do that! But that—

—Hurry! And don’t hold anything back for this typhoon, make it certain!

Ha Leeha cut off the communication with Anderson and rushed forward.

The dark cloud at the edge of his vision seemed to clear up, but soon, the front of Ha Leeha and Kaztor turned pitch black.

“〈Perfect Storm〉, huh. It was an interesting spell.”

“It’s about to get less interesting.”

───────────────!

Ha Leeha fired another shot.

The barrier flickered briefly.

He couldn’t tell exactly where the bullet was headed, but the fact that it was hitting the right direction at this speed was a comfort to Ha Leeha.

—Hyung! What’s your position?! Which direction should we go? Hyein hyung is giving us the direction and distance based on the coordinates and buoys—

—Damn it, we’re moving too fast, I can’t stabilize it! Maybe 4 kilometers directly east of the buoy point? We might fall straight into the sea; can you make it?

Boom…!

The dark clouds that gathered in an instant were now large enough to cover the entire sky above Ha Leeha and Kaztor.

As light flickered amidst the pitch-black clouds and the sound of thunder roared, torrential rain began to pour down, causing the sea to surge.

Even Kaztor’s flight started to waver.

In such a typhoon, it was undoubtedly challenging for even a dragon to fly. No matter how remarkable Kaztor was, flying would be impossible.

While Ha Leeha briefly laughed at the sight of Kaztor’s instability, he couldn’t help but scream as waves many times taller than himself approached.

“Damn it―”

Ha Leeha swiftly dove into the sea.

What was the current wind speed? It had to be at least 45 meters per second. The force of the wind was literally creating waves as big as houses.

‘But with this, Kaztor’s movement is hindered!’

As soon as Ha Leeha resurfaced, he lifted the Black Best.

The sky had turned completely black, making Kaztor’s black clothing even harder to spot. Fortunately, the mana vision still worked.

Like looking through a thermal imaging camera, Ha Leeha could see Kaztor’s unsteady flight.

Kaztor was undoubtedly trying to speed forward.

However, he swayed left, then right, as if his body was intentionally rolling.

“Hu, hu, hu―”

Ha Leeha watched the scene intently.

In the super-typhoon created by Anderson, with wind speeds of 48 meters per second.

Ha Leeha noticed the seawater forming a vortex and being sucked into the sky not far from him.

‘If I were human, I wouldn’t survive, but I’m a mermaid now.’

He let himself be carried by the waves.

He simultaneously felt the sensation of floating and being thrown to the bottom.

Simultaneously, Ha Leeha felt the wind.

He had to read the air currents’ movements as he did with the water currents.

In which direction had Kaztor swayed while flying?

At which position had he swayed wildly, and in what manner?

“Ugh!”

Crash――――――――――!

Thunder rumbled loudly with the lightning.

Ha Leeha wished even one bolt of lightning would strike the flying Kaztor, but unfortunately, that didn’t happen.

‘I will hit. I have to hit.’

Ha Leeha immediately fired a shot.

Despite being carried by the surging waves, he felt his aim was decent.

However, the tracer bullet just veered off in a strange direction, not even scratching Kaztor’s barrier!

As expected.

‘Remember, visualize, you idiot. And feel it.’

Ha Leeha mentally traced the path the tracer bullet had taken.

How had the thin, long yellow line moved in the pitch-black space?

What was the correlation between Kaztor’s movements and the bullet’s trajectory?

What was the speed and direction of the wind in the typhoon?

Whoosh………….

The wind and rain battered Ha Leeha’s wet hair mercilessly.

Ha Leeha didn’t blink an eye.

How could he stop Kaztor, even for a moment? Ha Leeha felt his mind clearing.

He suddenly thought of a way to stop the flying target.
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“Kaztor!”

Ha Leeha shouted with the loudest voice he could muster.

“I have uncovered all the secrets of the Sniper of Magic Bullets!”

“What?”

Kaztor’s movements came to an abrupt halt.

“〈Familiar Fear: Specify〉. 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉.”

Ha Leeha pulled the trigger.

From the muzzle of Black Bass, Uncanny and tracer bullets were fired simultaneously. Forty-two streaks of light swirled through the air and flew straight towards Kaztor.

Could he use curve shots without relying on mana? Ha Leeha had just answered that question.

“Arrrghhh!”

Without time for the barrier to react, Kaztor’s scream echoed as he was struck. Ha Leeha immediately swam towards where he anticipated Kaztor would fall, but unfortunately, Kaztor did not drop.

His altitude briefly dipped, causing a wavering motion, but he was still flying.

“Wh-what? How…”

“Hoo… hooo… a Terror Spirit? I heard you killed Toon, but to have tamed a Terror Spirit as well, Ha Leeha.”

Kaztor, hovering in mid-air, looked down at Ha Leeha.

‘He didn’t faint? Did the Terror Spirit have no effect on him? No, no, it worked. That scream earlier confirmed he witnessed a target of fear.’

Why didn’t he faint, then?

If he were an undead completely immune to fear, that would make sense, but Kaztor wasn’t undead.

“Ha! You followed me believing in just one Terror Spirit—”


Thud!

“—didn’t you?”

Had the multi-headed bullet extinguished the barrier? Kaztor’s body wobbled, with his left elbow being blown away. However, black mana soon gathered there and restored it.

“Not bad. No, very impressive. But this level of attack won’t kill me.”

“Maybe not kill you. But the vitality stored in your Vitality Jar isn’t limitless, is it?”

Ha Leeha pulled the bolt again and fired another bullet.

With each shot, parts of Kaztor’s body were damaged but promptly regenerated.

A sinister smile appeared on Kaztor’s lips.

“Do you think you can drain an ocean with a ladle? Compared to the three musketeers of the previous generation, you are absurdly foolish.”

“It’s not foolishness. It’s a strong spirit of experimentation.”

Ha Leeha pulled the trigger once more. Yet, it seemed to have an effect similar to attacking a spirit.

‘That’s not a spirit. Last time, there was definitely damage.’

The advantage of transferring his life into the Vitality Jar was eliminating physical weaknesses, but it wasn’t the same as being a spirit.

In other words, he still had to use his own life force to repair any damage to his body after being hit.

As Ha Leeha fired the fourth shot after three, Kaztor began to inch away, which was evidence enough.

Ha Leeha stopped shooting precisely at that moment.

“See? You can’t scoop the ocean with a gourd, but you can certainly scoop what’s in a rubber basin.”

“Arrogant… If you have nothing more to say—”

“I do! I have plenty to say.”

There was no such thing as an attack without meaning. This was currently Ha Leeha’s best effort. Until the helpers arrived, his goal was to hold on and extract as much information as possible. The moment the Terror Spirit had no effect, Ha Leeha realized he couldn’t kill Kaztor on his own. Ha Leeha felt a deep sense of sorrow but had no choice.


“He’s not someone you can kill with just damage. If there were a user with a restraining skill, we might cook something up alongside the dragon. Attacking further now would only provoke him. Once Kaztor finds Ha Leeha’s attacks bothersome, who knows what he might do. It was a situation to avoid at all costs.”

“I even visited a Dark Elf’s tribe to learn about Arcane Sniper, and there I—”

“Hehe… You went to such lengths, and even summoned the Terror Spirit, but in the end, I remain unscathed. So what if your companions come here now, thinking they can tickle me?”

“What on earth are you saying? I actually found something out about Arcane Sniper, so I mentioned it.”

Tickling space?

Had he already sensed Hyein’s skill?

Ha Leeha spoke as calmly as possible, but Kaztor didn’t miss Ha Leeha’s slight stammer.

Kaztor was already smirking. Ha Leeha felt a chilling sensation at the sight of the Dark Elf still retaining “Rothjak’s” appearance, laughing.

“You can’t have found out anything. Hehe… because I didn’t leave anything behind. But I can certainly sense your strong desire to know about Arcane Sniper. Fine!”, Kaztor waved a hand towards the air.

A pitch-black space opened under the dark sky. From it emerged a rather thick book.

“I’ll tell you a few things you don’t know about Arcane Sniper.”

Ha Leeha didn’t respond.

In reality, timing his distraction would have led him to dismiss Kaztor’s words as nonsense. However, now Ha Leeha needed to stall for time. No matter what those words meant, he had to listen first.

“There are no free lunches, I suppose?”

“Of course not.”

Kaztor grinned.

The look on Kaztor’s face made Ha Leeha want more than anything to put a bullet through it, despite the temptation presented.

“You’re not gonna ask me to join you, are you…?”

“Ha! Do you think I’d believe anything you say, even if you kissed my feet? What I want is a trade.”

Ha Leeha hesitated, stalled. In that brief moment, he was pushed back about 50 meters. The strong wind even made Kaztor stagger in mid-air.


Ha Leeha barely managed to recompose himself and returned to his position to ask.

“A trade?”

What could he possibly want?

Kaztor nodded and said to Ha Leeha.

“You killed Toon, didn’t you? You must have his laryngeal bone.”

“Lar—laryngeal bone?”

Ha Leeha struggled to hide his astonished expression. He had looted pieces of Toon’s great armor, Toon’s skin, and even Toon’s vocal cords.

‘I’ve already used up the chest armor. I have one piece of skin left… Come to think of it, there are also the vocal cords. But why? What is he after?’

The term ‘Toon’s vocal cords’ might sound better than it actually was; it referred to the massive bone that had been in the neck of a dinosaur over 400 meters long. What could be the reason behind wanting such a huge bone, sizable enough to be turned into a weapon?

‘The item description didn’t have anything special, did it? No special effects or anything. I just thought it was a material item. Well, I suppose since the chest armor is a material, the vocal cords could be used for something too—’

What kind of item could a Dark Elf like him be planning to make with Toon’s vocal cords?

“Make your decision quickly. I’ll give you five seconds.”

“Wa-wait! Why? Why do you want that?”

“Did you ask that thinking I’d actually tell you? You’re unbelievably foolish.”

It was obvious that he wouldn’t get an answer. However, Ha Leeha hoped to catch something in Kaztor’s reaction—even the smallest twitch of a fingertip or curve of a lip.

Of course, Kaztor gave no such hints.

“Four seconds. Three seconds.”

Ha Leeha bit his lips tightly. 

‘He’s heading to the New Continent. Is there a place in the New Continent where Toon’s vocal cords would be useful? If not, it wouldn’t make sense for him to need it now. Toon’s vocal cords don’t seem to be related to the magic sniper. Damn, I need to buy more time—’

“Two seconds. One second.”

“All right—”

“Too late.”

“Whhhooo—!”

Kaztor resumed his flight. At that moment, a violet light flashed over Ha Leeha’s head. Kaztor had perfectly timed the arrival of Hyein.

“Hyung!”

“I’ll seal the space first!”

“No, it’s not teleportation! We need to stop him from flying—”

“What wind— What the heck is this!”

Kijung, Hyein, and Bobae all tried to intercept Kaztor at once, but this place was the sea. The arrows Bobae fired spiraled away helplessly.

The typhoon, which couldn’t even allow bullets with a speed of 830 m/s to fly straight, was too ruthless to be overcome by arrows.

“Eh? No boat either? In this sea, I thought you’d at least have a small boat or something—”

Ha Leeha didn’t even look at the members of Byulcho drowning and struggling against the fierce waves.

“Remember the multi-warhead shot when under short impact.”

Kaztor’s cloak fluttered as he flew. His body swayed left and right as he moved.

There would undoubtedly be more turbulence. Bullets, with less mass, would be even more affected by the wind.

But the speed was different.

He considered Kaztor’s flight speed and the Black Bass bullets’ speed.

“Shoo— controlling the wind…”

Ha Leeha lifted the Black Bass. He did not aim at Kaztor. It made more sense now.

What happens when a wind traveling at 43 m/s meets another at 40 m/s? What effect does it have when a bullet is shot through the space between them?

“No, it’s not that I understand it.”

He felt it.

Ha Leeha quietly pulled the trigger.

— The sound of another gunshot was drowned out by the rolling thunder.

A flash of light burst from Kaztor. No sound was heard. Nevertheless, Ha Leeha felt as if he heard the sound of the bullet breaking through the barrier.

“Hyung! Hyung! What’s going on? What happened?”

“Kaztor… Damn it, the situation is so different from what we were told—Sorry about that. We just naively assumed he’d be on the ship…”

Hyein used flying magic to lift people up one by one. Only then did Bobae find her composure and asked Ha Leeha.

“Just now, Ha Leeha… You hit him, right?”

Ha Leeha didn’t answer. He rummaged through his bag instead.

“Bobae, just a moment.”

Ha Leeha immediately threw something towards the typhoon.

“Screech!? Wh-what’s that?”

“An eagle? A pig? A shark?”

“Huh? What is that—”

Amid the strange noises from the typhoon, three semi-transparent animals suddenly appeared in the sky. Souls without bodies were caught up in the wind, flapping helplessly.

Ha Leeha quietly observed them.

“I see. Now I understand.”

He aimed the muzzle of the Black Bass at the sky and pulled the trigger.

The tracer bullet traced a snake-like figure with little curvature.

The bullet flew toward the flapping soul of the maze.

Crash!

Just as the soul of the pig disappeared, a holographic window appeared before Ha Leeha’s eyes. Ba-bam!

『White Reaper: Piercing Eye- 1 completed.』

『Achievement gained: Cutting Through the Wind.』

The events in the Sea of Dawn soon spread to the key individuals. However, there weren’t many who could move immediately.

This incident ultimately became an issue among users.

Users from the Knights of Narnia and Lark, along with other national knight orders, rushed to the new continent’s Juma City, hunting him down, while Ram Hwayeon and paleo immediately established a surveillance network.

“…

“Are you really not sending the NPCs? Then it’s just our country suffering!”

“The sortie—no, the advance is tomorrow, and hurrying things now will only add to the confusion. They seem to have sent a small vanguard, so it’s going to be tough for you and Ram Hwayeon.”

This time, four nations were joining forces under the banner of 〈The Sacred Alliance〉. The key figures were finding it difficult to control the situation due to Kaztor’s emergence.

Although there was a valid point, the users felt it was merely an ‘excuse’ from the side of the NPCs.

(To be continued…)
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“It seems like from the start…”

“Kikit, should we call it Middle Earth’s trickery? A ploy to send Kaztor to the New Continent? Well, if it was an event that couldn’t be prevented in the first place, they should have just sent him off quickly. It’s just going to piss off the people who suffered all this time.”

The users had judged it as the trickery of the Middle Earth system. Just like the quest at Marath’s base was designed to fail eventually, the probability that this event was focused more on failure than success was high.

“Hyung.”

Ha Leeha was with Byulcho, engaging in conversations with its members up until now.

“Huh? What?”

“What are you spacing out for? What are you thinking about?”

“Nothing. Nothing at all.”

However, Ha Leeha was not really participating in the conversation.

‘Should I attribute it to Kaztor? I cleared the quest. Got the achievement as well… But that darn Kaztor…’ His mind was tangled with thoughts.

“Why did he look for the vocal cords though? Why did he need them? And… What exactly is the information you hold about the Arcane Sniper?”

It’s natural for curiosity to arise in Ha Leeha since he had not heard Kaztor’s words clearly. But that, in turn, presented room for alternative thinking. Judging by the situation, Kaztor should be desperate for information about the Arcane Sniper. Isn’t that the very reason he was heading to the New Continent? But his reaction?

“When he said he knows everything about the Arcane Sniper! that reaction… if he was truly interested, he should have clearly reacted to his own words.

‘The certainty about the past Arcane Sniper would not be something he possessed either. It’s hard to think he has any information about the current Arcane Sniper.’

Nevertheless, he made a conclusion.

That was what made Ha Leeha’s mind complicated.

“How could he be so confident that I don’t have the data? Could it be that he knows about the White Reaper as well? No, rather than just the White Reaper, maybe he knows everything about the Panrind tribe, more than I do? The data they hold would mean nothing if I obtained it, because no new data can exist in this world beyond what he already knows?”

Knows everything? New data can’t exist beyond his knowledge?

“Is that really the case? Even if it’s not that…”


Kaztor must know about the White Reaper and the Panrind tribe as well.

“Um, excuse me, but I need to be on my way.”

“Oh? Hey, where are you planning to go? The New Continent? Tomorrow, won’t you join us-”

As Ha Leeha stood up abruptly, Kijung grabbed him. But Ha Leeha’s resolve was even stronger.

“No. Forget about the New Continent. I might not be able to go there for a while.”

“W-What are you saying? At this crucial time? Now all of Middle Earth’s focus is shifting towards the New Continent! It will be totally different from the time we fooled around with the paleo during the expedition! In the future-”

“I’m sorry, Kijung. I’m in a hurry. Everyone, I’ll ask for your help later.”

Ha Leeha immediately activated the cellulose sphere.

“Hey, whe-where are you going, Leeha hyung!”

Before Kijung could grab him again, Ha Leeha vanished. Bobae and Jin Gonggong were bewildered, but a few others were smiling knowingly.

“Hehe, if it’s Ha Leeha, then he’s probably thought of something again. Even if he seems to be acting aloof-”

“At least we can trust what Ha Leeha does.”

“Anyway, if we get into danger, he’ll show up. That’s how he is. That’s why he’s always busy with unnecessary stuff. We should just focus on our tasks, Kay.”

Biyemi, Hyein, and Tale didn’t know what Ha Leeha was up to, but they had a vague idea why he had to do it.

“Shimo! Shimo!”

While most of the key figures in Middle Earth were focused on a person named ‘Kaztor’, Ha Leeha’s focus was elsewhere.

Kaztor was headed to the New Continent, but ‘what’ he was going to do there? Ha Leeha wanted to delve into the results of that action.

“The Marksman’s Bullet…”

The White Reaper suddenly appeared in front of Ha Leeha.

『In one go? How did you-』


“I don’t really know. Somehow…”

『Somehow? You can’t just somehow make that shot. A speed of 400 meter per second is not something anyone can just achieve. I know that better than anyone…』

Looking at the astounded eyes of the White Reaper, Ha Leeha smiled awkwardly. He had seen Shimo marvel at or be pleased with him several times before, but this was the first time he saw such a shocked expression.

There was a strange sense of satisfaction in having surprised someone of this caliber.

“Hehe, but honestly, I really don’t know. I mean, uh… When I saw it with my own eyes and felt the wind, I felt like I understood something, but explaining it in words is… how should I put it…”

『Indeed, of course… That is so.』

“Yes?”

The White Reaper’s expression gradually shifted from one of astonished shock to one of gentle and proud satisfaction.

『It’s not something that can be explained. Even I couldn’t explain it. The ability to discern is not something that can be achieved through mere knowledge or explanation. It requires faith, insight, and intuition. Once you’re able to see, whether it’s a mere gust of wind or a violent storm of 40…』

The White Reaper continued, patting the shoulder of another White Reaper.

『Whatever might dazzle your eyes, you’ll be able to see it now. I believe you will be able to discern everything.』

“Thank you.”

『CLOSE YOUR EYES』

“Oh, oh, oh, this is so scary.”

The question, “Are you planning to take my eyes after telling me to close them?” surged up Leeha’s throat.

He wondered why such actions were necessary when it was just the creation of a skill. However, he had no choice but to close his eyes.

『The White Reaper… to the White Reaper…』

~…

~”

As light penetrated through his eyelids, Ha Leeha squeezed his eyes shut even tighter. At that moment, the light disappeared.


『Skill – Beginner Distorted Vision (Passive) has been learned.』

『How do you feel?』

Ha Leeha opened his eyes upon hearing the White Reaper’s voice. His blinking eyes felt a slight sting, as though they had grown sensitive.

“Well, it’s like, although I haven’t had Lasik surgery, it sort of feels like-”

『What? What surgery?』

“No, no! It’s very good. Very clear- oh my, it’s not just clear…?”

〈Beginner’s Eyes that see the Wind Road (Passive)〉 Description: Knows the path the wind takes. Sees the heart that tries to deceive you.

Effect: Identifies wind direction and speed within a specific region. Sees through disguises, invisibility, illusions, and all falsehoods (provided that the sum of the caster’s agility and intelligence is at least 209 points higher than the target’s).

“Sees through all falsehoods… This is crazy!”

Indeed, the White Reaper had not reacted to Bahamut’s illusion or Jellypong’s spy glasses.

In other words, the ability to see through illusions and transformations was known.

But invisibility and camouflage too?

“Um, could it be, Shimo-nim?”

『Hmm?』

“Back then, when we first met… Did you shoot at me after seeing my breath?”

『Breath? I shot at you the moment I saw you.』

He had thought the reaper shot at him after seeing his breath. But what if that was not the case? It could only be said that Ha Leeha avoided the first shot purely due to his instinct and intuition.

If he had turned his head even 0.1 seconds late, Ha Leeha would have been killed.

“It’s a scam. No, it’s more than an ordinary scam. It’s a total scam. The ‘Detect’ skill couldn’t even break the camouflage…”

Ha Leeha nodded vigorously. So what if it was a total scam? Now that skill was his.

“Keh-heh-heh, besides, this skill doesn’t have levels. It only has ranks. The effects that change with rank might be the usage restrictions of the 〈Eye〉.”

When using that ‘total scam’ skill on people, I.e., to see through transformation or invisibility, there was a condition: Ha Leeha’s combined agility and intelligence needed to be at least 20% higher than the target.

“Although I’ve increased my intelligence a lot recently, it’s still low. Most mage-class jobs probably have higher intelligence than mine. But… agility~? Character window!”

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human / Job: White Reaper / Level: 256 (38.94%) Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 162 HP: 10,760 (7,532) MP: 3,760 Stats: Strength 808 (+723) Agility 4,247 (+1,522) Intelligence 607 (+391) Stamina 415 (+289) Mind 253 (+155) Remaining Stat Points: 233

“Heh-heh… Combining intelligence and agility gives me a whopping 4,854. Even if my opponent’s combined agility and intelligence is 4,000, I’d still be 20% and 54 points higher!”

The total of 4,000 stat points was a level not easily reached by just anyone. As it stood, Ha Leeha had already exceeded 4,000 in a single stat and still had 233 stat points left.

“The ‘Profit Sharing Certificate for Resource Development of the Northern Mines of the Lope Continent’ is an achievement without a Hall of Fame, giving me 34 stat points. The ‘The One Who Hatched from the Egg’… didn’t make it into the Hall of Fame because it was too late. Still, I got 25 points from that.”

Even though it was an S-rank achievement without a Hall of Fame, the reward for the original achievement was doubled. From the 『Profit Sharing Certificate for Resource Development of the Northern Mines of the Lope Continent』 achievement and the ‘The One Who Hatched from the Egg’ achievement received upon completing the second job change.

While others carefully saved even a single stat point, Ha Leeha had kept his stored up. He never felt the need to invest in stats due to his already strong abilities, using them only when necessary, accumulating more from past achievements and now having 233 points.

“Just have someone try to hide. I’ll blow them away easily this time.”

The 〈Eye〉 had no range limit. At least among the users, there wouldn’t be many who could escape Ha Leeha’s sniping.

“If there’s a bullet that can pierce anything and a shield that can block everything, what do you think would happen?”

“Uh, what?”

Distracted by the character window, Ha Leeha missed what Shimo said, then quickly responded in surprise. As Shimo explained again, Ha Leeha replied while tilting his head.

“Contradiction—no, bullet-shield, you mean?”

『Exactly. No matter how piercing your gaze is, if the target ceases to exist, you can’t see it, can you?』

『White Reaper: Nonexistent Existence―2』

Description: “Your technique was very intriguing. At first glance, it seemed as if you naturally blended completely into your surroundings. But that was merely a ‘camouflage’ in nature. Now, imagine what would happen if you could blend in perfectly… completely merge with your surroundings.”

The White Reaper, simo, seeks to pass on his breath to you after you pass his trial.

Objective: Evade Shimo’s pursuit within a limited area for 24 hours.

Reward: Skill—Melding Breath

『White Reaper: Prayer for Snow Ritual―3』

Failure Conditions: If hit by Shimo or if you leave the designated area.

Upon Failure: Quest route deletion.

(To be continued.)
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“Quest Window…”

Ha Leeha quickly read through the quest window.

He immediately understood the meaning of the example he had brought up.

‘He said that the Distorted Vision could see through camouflage. Then the reward skill for this quest must be…’

It meant an even higher level of camouflage!

‘No, it’s not just camouflage. It literally means melting into the surroundings, becoming one with them. But!’

What bothered him was the phrase “holding one’s breath” at the end of the quest description.

Wasn’t it Shimo who, being an ethereal being, kept saying words like “getting weaker” and “about to disappear” ever since the quest with Ha Leeha began?

‘Well, since there is a next quest with a reward, it can’t be the end, right? No way that quest will be the last one, would it? The name Giseoljae doesn’t seem to fit with the “White Reaper” anyway―’

『What do you think I did to face the giant mages? They once wiped out an entire forest with their wide-area magic. During the Winter War, they blew up the entire area within an 800m radius, destroying it completely.』

“Huh? Ah, what?”

If it was during the Winter War, then he was alive, not an ethereal being.

But how did he survive when the entire 800m radius was blown up?

『Your tricks were quite interesting, but mine are a bit different.』

Shimo quickly laid flat on the snowy ground.

Ha Leeha kept watching him. Or so he thought.

Though he hadn’t blinked, Shimo’s form naturally disappeared, as if it had never been there in the first place.

“What? Huh?”

When did he disappear?


It was so natural that he couldn’t even sense something disappearing from his sight and awareness.

“How—”

『How could you attack me when I’m not there? If you want to carry the name of the White Reaper, you’ll have to master this.』

“No way… Is it what I’m thinking it is?”

Ha Leeha tilted his head with a strange expression.

He hadn’t been affected by wide-area magic.

How could they attack me?

I don’t exist. Everything pointed to one thing.

It wasn’t just camouflage, transparency, or transformation; it added something more.

‘… Attack nullification?’

Even in a state of camouflage, if an attack lands on Ha Leeha, he’d die.

But does this skill prevent such mishaps?

Not having to worry about blind attacks and wide-area skills?

‘This is crazy, that’s impossible. Yeah, it must be impossible. That would be cheating. Ha ha, no way.’

Ha Leeha was shocked for a moment but soon came to terms with it. That was just too much, wasn’t it?

“How does it sound? Will you take on the challenge?”

Shimo urged Leeha.

Leeha looked at the quest window once more.

The success condition was to evade Shimo’s pursuit for 24 hours.

‘He’s an NPC that can even see through camouflage. Simply hiding won’t work. But as long as I avoid his pursuit and don’t get hit…’


There was also the option of three-dimensional maneuvers using Jellypong.

Couldn’t Blaugrunn be utilized to subtly interfere?

Although the quest conditions seemed dangerous, Leeha’s curiosity about the skill reward couldn’t be contained.

“I accept the challenge.”

The battlefield was set.

The quest would automatically fail if he left the battlefield.

Shimo would start moving in 5 minutes.

Hide and Seek:

『Preparation Time ― 00:04:59』

‘Oh?! Hide and Seek? And only 5 minutes to prepare―’

As Leeha hastily grabbed his Black Vests, Shimo fired his paint bullet into the snow.

Startled by the gunshot, Leeha looked at the ground and saw a red-colored snowball.

“Is that… a paint bullet?”

『I can’t use real bullets, can I? Remember, the moment you get hit even once, it’s over for you.』

Shimo, radiating an aura as if he were about to kill someone, held a paint bullet more suitable for a survival game.

Leeha couldn’t help but think, ‘This spirit can be quite meticulous.’

But he couldn’t afford to waste even a second here.

“Let’s go, Jellypong!”

『Myong-myong!』

Leeha swiftly moved away from Shimo.


The place where Shimo was, remained as ruins from the past. He was using the largest building in the area as his main base.

“A… Ah!?”

Only then did Leeha realize it. Shimo had said he couldn’t leave ‘this place.’

So, how large was the battlefield?

“Just this much?”

The area Shimo could roam was the ruins of an old village. The entire village, about 1km in all directions, was surrounded by a light purple spatial barrier.

In this place with hardly any suitable hiding spots, Leeha had to find a place within 24 hours to conceal himself within 4 minutes.

The only fortunate thing was that the sun had already set.

***

“Chup, the coastal side following Juma City has been fully deployed, but there’s still no sight of it.”

“Mm, I thought so. I heard about Kaztor’s flying speed from Leeha-ssi, but from the center of the Sea of Dawn to here is quite a distance. If he were coming by flight alone, there’s certainly not enough time—”

“Hah! Nara-ssi, you’re thinking too complacently again. Just because he flew out of there doesn’t guarantee he’s flying all the way here.”

Lark had drawn his sword. Even just walking while holding it, the blade left trails of a rainbow-colored afterimage.

Shin Nara watched for a moment before asking Lark, “So, he’s going to use teleportation? But they said the mana linkage failed.”

“The mana linkage itself might have failed. While teleportation ‘all at once’ might not be possible, what if he used continuous blinks from the point where the New Continent comes into view?”

It was insightful to think of various ways a profession can be applied even if it was not his actual occupation.

“Ah… Right! Now that I think about it, they said he went to the Old Continent from here a long time ago… Even though the old settlement near the Gorilla paleo Tribe has been closed, there’s still a chance he might teleport near there!”

Shin Nara nodded her head in agreement.

While the Sacred Knights and some of the Vertuor Knights deployed along the coastline were using transparent detection and reconnaissance skills extensively, they would not be able to catch someone moving by blink.

Moreover, hadn’t the investigation into Rotzak’s past undertaken by the Fibiel royalty revealed that he came from the New Continent just before the Second Great Inhuman War?

“Yes. But he probably wouldn’t go to the gorillas. It’s probably his first time back to the New Continent in a long while; he wouldn’t want to see such ugly faces from the start… Hmm, let’s see… Arbitrarily entering using blink poses significant risks as well… Given that Ha Leeha-ssi thwarted them, there’s a near-impenetrable defense set up here which would not go unnoticed by an NPC of that caliber… So—”

Lark mumbled ceaselessly, while Shin Nara watched him with curious eyes.

‘Is that what it means when they say you can hear someone’s brain working? He seems smart, but at times like this, he’s like a kid—’

“—How will he come. He must be incredibly strong, right?”

“Ah?! Yes?”

Lark stopped mumbling and suddenly turned his head to Shin Nara. Startled, she hurriedly responded, worried that he might have read her mind.

“I-I’ve never faced him myself. But… Even without Leeha-ssi’s words, subduing Sir Syndergard without even a scream is an astounding feat.”

“Indeed. To silently kill twelve border guards, including a former Sacred Knight and a coalition force from four nations…”

Lark knew nothing about Kaztor nor his connections to “Arcane Sniper.”

All he knew from Cheka about Lotsak=Kaztor were tidbits collected by Pon from the Vertuor Knights and the events at the Papacy.

Thus, it was nearly impossible for him, positioned differently from Leeha, Kidd, or Luger, to decipher Kaztor’s plans and intentions.

‘Two former members of the Fibiel’s Three Musketeers. Or rather, three including their children. What Kaztor the Dark Elf NPC might currently be targeting is likely them…’

Yet, he managed to derive such unlikely insights.

Could this be the outcome when Luger’s instincts met Kidd’s intellect?

His mind was tirelessly churning.

‘Where could they be? Judging by Kaztor’s moves, it’s certainly the New Continent. Otherwise, he wouldn’t have come here.’

While Lark pondered, Shin Nara was also rigorously communicating with Ram Hwayeon and the paleo members from the Partisans, trying to discern Kaztor’s movements. So far, there were no significant results.

Dealing with AI of the highest caliber required “reading” them in advance rather than merely “responding” upon sight.

And at that moment, a whisper arrived for the two members of the Capital Guard Knights.

“From the coastline—”

“―Lich Dragon Emergence!”

The Sacred Knights and the Verture Knights had reported immediately.

Shin Nara quickly lifted the crystal ball, but it was Lark who stopped her motion.

“W-What are you doing!?”

“No, we shouldn’t go.”

“What? What do you mean― What? It’s a Lich Dragon! Faust― Ah! Igor has also appeared! Faust and the Lich Dragon to the north, Igor to the south!”

On Juma City’s northern coast, lich Dragons, bone Dragons, and Undead Dragons suddenly made their appearance.

On Juma City’s southern coast, an unidentified Giant had appeared.

Immediate support was requested.

This was the common report that both of them received.

Shin Nara couldn’t hide her urgency, making Lark’s actions even more perplexing.

“……A feint attack. They split north and south……”

Lark ground his teeth.

“Let’s go to Juma City!”

“What? At least explain―”

“Don’t use the crystal ball, use the return scroll!”

Unlike the crystal ball, the return scroll required no casting time. Lark immediately tore the scroll and disappeared.

Despite her confusion, Shin Nara followed him without delay.

“Lark! Lark! Where are we going? All other guards are already dispatched for support!”

NPCs guarding the perimeter of Juma City, regardless of their affiliation with the Sacred Alliance, were heading for support both north and south.

Lark turned to Shin Nara briefly.

His face was contorted, but a smile lingered at the corners of his mouth.

“That’s exactly why I’m saying this……. It’s their favorite pattern. No, Igor and Faust have made it even more certain.”

“What?”

“Kaztor or Rotzak. It wasn’t because of the former trio! They’ll come. And if we know which area they’re coming to…… I can play a little trick.”

“What…… What are you talking about―”

Shin Nara stammered as she looked at Lark’s sword. Yellow particles had gathered on his blade without her noticing.

“〈Sticking Yellow〉.”

A brilliant yellow light shone from Lark’s sword.

“……Hmm? What did you do?”

However, Lark didn’t respond. Instead of answering, he suddenly started running.
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“Lark-ssi! Where are you going?! Did you cast a buff? Spatial Lock?”

Shin Nara asked, chasing after him, but Lark ignored even that.

He only moved at a maddening pace, scattering rainbow-colored afterimages.

There wasn’t even a pale purple barrier.

This was because Shin Nara herself had pulled out a space confinement scroll in advance with great tension.

Lark ran and ran again.

He came out of the east gate of Juma City and ran south for a while before changing direction and running again for a few more minutes.

“Nara-ssi.”

Lark, who couldn’t resist Shin Nara’s urging, finally opened his mouth.

“Yes?”

“Do you remember how I dealt with Bluebeard during the 〈Divine Staff〉 quest?”

“…… You anticipated he would come that way―”

“Of course, basic anticipation is necessary. But accurately pinpointing the location.”

Lark raised his sword.

Having run about 800 meters from Juma City to an open field, he suddenly swung his sword.

“It’s all thanks to this. 〈Blue Hurricane〉!”

Puhwaaaa────────!

At the spot where the blue whirlwind soared, even in the dark night, there floated a pitch-black sphere.

“…… What is this…… A dragon—or a human?”


A split voice leaked out from there.

“I’ve got you, Kaztor.”

A bloody red aura had already gathered around Lark’s sword.

* * *

“Rotzak!”

Dame Shin Nara drew her sword and her body extended towards the sphere in unison, in less than 0.3 seconds.

“Oh, dame Shin? It’s been a while.”

Kaztor swung his arm without showing any signs of confusion.

It was a light motion in the air, just once, but six black spears shot toward Shin Nara.

“Kkwoook!”

She deftly deflected the black spears, twisting and contorting her body into the space.

“Ho, still impressive. The Sacred Knights really pick their people well.”

“Don’t mock me! I never liked you! Because of you— Sir Syndergard— 〈Phant〉!”

Zweeeeee!

Her sword aimed straight at Kaztor’s heart.

Kaztor briefly tilted his head, murmuring “Sir Syndergard?”

The tip of Shin Nara’s sword passed through Kaztor’s body and protruded out from his back.

“Kkuaaaagh!”

Kaztor screamed in agony.

“Oh, oh?! Nara-ssi!? Ni…ce?”


Lark was so flabbergasted that his grip on his sword slackened.

Of course, it was a desperate attack. From the leap to the thrust.

The series of connected movements could be considered as pushing the basics of fencing to their extremes.

But to work this easily?

“…… What?”

The surprise was the same for Shin Nara as well.

Not because her attack had struck, but because Kaztor’s face, after screaming in agony, had recovered its calmness once again.

“Tsk tsk, still a rookie. You have a bit of political and administrative power, but… your habit of losing control when you’re angry needs to be fixed, doesn’t it?”

“What the—ah?”

Only then did Shin Nara manage to shift her focus to Kaztor’s face.

Her sword was piercing through Kaztor’s body. No, it had ‘passed through’ it.

Her sword was not coming out of Kaztor’s body, but it had instead entered a tiny black space that suddenly appeared in front of Kaztor.

‘A kind of warp? The sword—entered here—and came out behind him?’

“Today, I’ll fix that nasty habit of yours.”

“Tch!”

Shin Nara tried to kick Kaztor’s body, but his magic was quicker. Just as he was about to grab her ankle, swinging his hand again.

“Hey, mage?”

“Hm—”

“〈Red—Sun〉.”

The red mana gathered at the tip of Lark’s sword exploded.


“Huh, arghhhhhhh—!”

“Kya!”

“Shin Nara!”

Lark supported Shin Nara as she fell to the ground.

“Lark! That—”

“Haha, if given the casting time, there’s no one who can beat me.”

He then quickly distanced himself from Kaztor’s attacking range.

Kaztor, engulfed in flames, was writhing in the air. Though he seemed to be flailing his arms wildly, he was precisely targeting Lark and Shin Nara, sending endless black spears their way.

“Arghhhhh! Damn it, who are you? The ‘Blue’ from before, and now the ‘Red’—what the hell are you?”

“Nice to meet you for the first time, chief Mage of Fibiel. I am Lark, from the Capital Defense Knights of Minis. This is our first meeting in person.”

Lark provoked the enemy with a sly grin.

Kaztor’s eyes flew wide open at his cheeky tone.

“It couldn’t have been you who cast this—this sword! That sword!”

“Hm?”

Though Lark intended to irritate Kaztor further, he could no longer joke around once Kaztor pointed at his sword.

“You know about this sword?”

Shin Nara had not seen Lark look this serious in a long time.

“Ugh, arghhh! Extinguish it. Put out these flames right now. Then I will tell you!”

Kaztor’s figure flickered irregularly.

Shin Nara tensed, thinking it was spatial movement, but it wasn’t.

As the Chief Mage of Fibiel’s appearance flickered in and out, what she glimpsed was a dark elf with pointed ears.

This meant Lark’s skill was dealing significant damage, enough to reveal Kaztor’s true form!

“Lark, no! Don’t stop! The attack—it’s working! If I can just finish it—”

“Except for me― Argh! No one other than a mage of my caliber could ever know! No, there’s no way a mere human race could understand from the start! Put out the fire now! I’ll tell you everything I know! At this level of ‘Red’, there’s still much you don’t know either!”

“… Damn it.”

Lark bit his lip and pointed his sword at Kaztor.

“Lark! Don’t you dare! If you cancel the skill now, I’ll never―”

Shhwaaaa…!

Before Shin Nara could finish her sentence, the fire on Kaztor’s body extinguished.

“This… this filthy human!”

Shin Nara slapped Lark across the face.

Her slap was so strong that it almost turned his head, but the shocked expression on Lark’s face showed who was hit.

“N-Nara?!”

“And yet you canceled the skill?! That was such an important NP―”

“I didn’t extinguish it!”

“―C― What?”

“As if I would―”

Flap… Flap… Flap…

Suddenly, the sound of flapping wings was heard.

Both Lark and Shin Nara turned their heads toward the direction of the sound.

Even if it were just the noise, they couldn’t help but look. The flames on Kaztor’s body had indeed vanished.

However, they weren’t extinguished.

Flare──────…!

Hovering in the air was a column of ‘Red-Sun’ fire. It meant someone removed just the fire stuck to Kaztor’s body.

“No way… you…”

“What― A familiar face― Wait, you― Over there! Who are you!”

Lark and Shin Nara recognized the figure controlling the flames in midair.

The figure, who had wings of fire webs attached to the back, spoke to Kaztor.

“Are you that mage?”

“Hmph, showing up late as usual.”

“Shut up and follow me. I’m not in a great mood.”

Saying that, he turned around. Kaztor started flying again, trying to follow him.

Lark and Shin Nara couldn’t stop them.

“Stop, Kaztor!”

“Wait! Py― Pyro!”

All they could do was call out the disappearing names regretfully.

Lark gripped his sword tightly.

‘A person who knows about my sword… Moreover, someone capable of removing ‘Red-Sun’.’

Where Kaztor and Pyro had disappeared, the users summoned by Shin Nara and Lark arrived one after another.

Among the crowd, Ha Leeha’s figure was nowhere to be seen.

* * *

Ha Leeha had a whisper conversation with Shin Nara and Hyein, who had been sent to support the site, including Lark.

The main points were that Kaztor appeared, Igor and Faust wreaked havoc even before that, and the fact that Lark’s ingenious skill hit the mark but was controlled by Pyro.

“Kaztor eventually made it to the new continent… Damn. I wasn’t expecting much, but I had some greed. No, did it at least pay off proportionately?”

Lark’s skill worked.

That fact was the most important thing to Lark at the moment.

Although Lark did not specify the exact skill name, Ha Leeha could easily guess what skill Lark used.

“〈Red-Sun〉. Must be the one that hit Bluebeard before.”

It was an attack that could make even a Demon King’s Fragment suffer.

Even though Kaztor was an excellent magician, if he was directly hit by that attack, he wouldn’t have walked away without damage. What was surprising was the fact that Kaztor was struck indiscriminately without even being able to control it.

“While it’s annoying that every good point has a bad point, it seems the two guys struck by 〈Red-Sun〉 have joined forces.”

Who was it that managed the fire that even Bluebeard couldn’t handle at will?

Bluebeard couldn’t control that fire instantly.

Kaztor reportedly said it was as if he couldn’t even extinguish it himself.

“Pyro… Crazy bastard.”

The one who controlled it was Pyro, a pyromancer and successor of a hero.

There were testimonies about his wings, his skin color, and appearance changing enough to be visible under the moonlight.

“Not satisfied with just joining forces— or maybe because he won too easily back then.”

He had completely become a vampire, which meant he had joined the side of the demons.

What happens if an successor of a hero receives the demons’ power?

“The successors of heroes generally inherit the power of NPCs who played an active role during the Second Great War. They are the characters most opposed to the demons, growing through quests and likely inheriting their items. Would their achievements or titles be revoked?”

Middle Earth?

Ha Leeha shook his head.

Middle Earth’s system wouldn’t force anything just because one chose a side.

“He would still be an successor of a hero. A successor of a hero, a vampire, and a subordinate of Bluebeard? It’s like he’s acquired all the unique paths in Middle Earth.”

Just being an successor of a hero changes how one grows and the growth rate compared to general classes.

What about becoming a vampire on top of that? Igor, Faust, and Pyro should be seen as different categories.

“I’ll catch him faster next time.”

〈Achievement: Cutting Through the Wind (A+)〉

Congratulations!

You have successfully cut through winds over 40 meters per second and precisely hit your target. Even in the winds that make it hard to stand, enemies will fear your persistence in targeting them. To amplify that fear, we present a small gift.

Rewards: Strength +6, agility +6, intelligence +6

10% Reduction on projectile influence by wind direction/speed

You are the first to register the achievement 〈Cutting Through the Wind〉.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: Strength +12, agility +12, intelligence +12

20% Reduction on projectile influence by wind direction/speed

An achievement gained as an extra reward for clearing the quest had an option to partially ignore wind direction/wind speed.

Combined with the 〈Piercing Gaze〉 skill, this achievement compensated to some extent for the lack of the Harpy Hat Ha Leeha wore in the past.

“Wait, what about Chiyou? Isn’t Chiyou also a successor of a hero? Ah! Wasn’t it a different NPC active in the Second Great War?”

There were times Ram Hwayeon collected information about Chiyou through ‘The Holy Grill.’

Chiyou was an successor of a hero with the class “Dancer”.

She actually participated in the New Continent Expedition under that pretext.

The difference from Pyro was that the previous-generation hero was not an NPC active in the Second Great War.

“That’s right. It was said something about a war with Fibiel and being a heroic assassin for Minis. Gosh! But still, she’s an successor of a hero. Should I see her differently from Pyro? I’d feel relieved if I could just take a look at those characters’ profile windows – huh!”
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Leeha muttered to himself in frustration but abruptly ceased his thoughts.

The moment Shin Nara and Lark discovered Kaztor, Leeha also received a whisper.

However, he couldn’t move.

『Hide and Seek: 14:35:51』

The game of hide and seek with Shimo was still ongoing.

Out of the 24 hours he needed to evade Shimo, a whopping 10 hours had already passed.

It had started at dusk the previous day and now had reached dawn of the next day without him being caught.

Leeha was lying buried in the snow, completely hidden except for his eyes, in the northwest part of a ruined village.

* * *

‘Pass by, pass by, pass by.’

The distance between Leeha and Shimo was roughly 350 meters.

The area was still heavily snowing, so as long as Leeha didn’t make any sudden movements, he would remain unseen.

What was especially significant was that Leeha managed to secure his position within just five minutes due to his experience in the war against the Giants.

‘There are sixteen potential observation points where the entire village can be seen. Among them, this location is the fourth shortest in distance and has the most surrounding trees.’

From the initial starting point at the ruined house with the large operations map, he had moved to this spot, quickly shoveling out some snow to make a trench while recalling his time as a sergeant, buried himself in it, and covered himself with snow again—all within five minutes.

‘It was only possible because of Jellypong…’

With the water spirit made from the essence of the Sea God, he could disguise his tracks without leaving a trace.

Using camouflage alone could easily get him caught; he had to undertake direct concealment.

‘My mana… 17. It’s all good. Maintaining Black Bass: SASR consumes 50 per hour, so in the next 35 minutes, I’ll recover to a safe 50.’


Leeha opened his character window to check his status.

Shimo was still wandering around, peering into different areas.

Out of his total mana of 3,760, he currently had only 17 left. He had deliberately drained all of his mana.

Although the skill “Distorted Vision” he had learned from Shimo did not include “Mana Detection”, if the original White Reaper’s “Distorted Vision” had thermal imaging capabilities, he could be in danger.

‘I even summoned the fear spirit to dig the snow! I dismissed Koma as soon as I summoned it, used a Bahamut illusion, and even Ghost in the Shell while moving here.’

The snow covered his body heat.

With his mana depleted, he wouldn’t stand out even under mana detection or mana vision.

With the naked eye?

Of course, he would be impossible to find.

Leeha was confident.

Unless Shimo shot randomly into places, there was no chance of being caught.

‘Haha… He doesn’t know I am experienced, that’s why such mistakes happen. Sergeant Kim and I trained intensely.’

One of the most crucial aspects of sniping was hiding.

No matter how accurate your shots were, once your position was revealed, a sniper’s life was in jeopardy.

Despite Ha Leeha being considered proficient in shooting from the start, stealth was an entirely different issue. Thus, it was an area where Sergeant Kim could only teach him with a beaming smile.

“No matter the terrain! No matter the climate! You need to hide perfectly! Don’t even breathe! If you think you’ll get caught breathing, just suffocate and we’ll treat it as dying in the line of duty… Seriously, is that rational or absurd? And then he’d stomp around with his military boots.”

It was a test of whether Ha Leeha was well-hidden or if he flinched clumsily under the threat of enemy attacks.

Sergeant Kim, even knowing Ha Leeha’s hiding spot, would base the situation on assumptions and stomp all over the place. How many times had Ha Leeha’s entire body been pummeled by that nauseating footwork?

‘In the worst-case scenario, the only option would be to engage in a gunfight with the White Reaper. Well, after all, the quest’s failure condition is simply being shot.’

The success condition was to evade his pursuit; the failure condition was being hit by his attack.


This implied that even if he revealed himself openly, as long as he could flee and counterattack during the chase, he could buy time.

Of course, Ha Leeha didn’t choose such a method.

‘Even though he’s using paint bullets, if by any chance I eliminate the ‘White Reaper’, he’d be dyed not white but bright red.’

The phrase Shimo had recited about tracking every eye and icicle.

And the mysterious attacks that divided whenever they collided with snowflakes or ice shards.

Ha Leeha had early on acknowledged that avoiding these was impossible.

‘Anyway, I won’t get caught. He’s not paying any attention over here.’

Shimo was wandering in and out of the abandoned house or occasionally pausing to look at the snow accumulating on the roof.

‘As expected, he’s a master. Or rather, it’s an AI sufficiently implanted with sniper actions.’

If there’s a camouflage similar to transparency, it’s safer to hide in plain sight.

Ha Leeha knew that hiding in wooded areas or places with many rocks, seemingly good hiding spots, was the action of ‘beginners.’

‘If I have a ghillie suit, lying down in the open meadow is safer than going into the forest.’

However, Ha Leeha’s current location was precisely that forest. Knowing Shimo’s exceptional sniping skills, Ha Leeha’s strategy involved exploiting the reverse.

‘This quest looks manageable, but the problem is the next one… Kisulje? Is that like a rainmaking ritual? It teaches you rituals for summoning snow—’

– Eong-ah, are you busy?

– Hey, Kijung. What’s up?

Ha Leeha’s skull buzzed, interrupting his idle thoughts.

– Well, today’s the ‘Sacred Alliance’ sortie date, right? It’s bustling near Juma City. I heard Ram Hwayeon said the construction on the fortress sites she scouted has already started.

– Really? Well, a camp alone wouldn’t be enough, as expected.

– Yeah. So, Kaztor also mentioned tracking yesterday’s pursuit and the future plan for the ‘Sacred Alliance’. So, we should get together—”


– Whoa, whoa! He’s coming! He’s coming!

– Huh? What’s coming? You? What’s coming?

– What the heck, all of a sudden?!

Ha Leeha couldn’t hear what else Kijung was saying.

This was because Shimo, who had been scanning here and there, suddenly changed direction and started advancing towards him.

Thinking about the movement, it was bizarre.

How could Shimo, all of a sudden, flip directions so abruptly as if he knew exactly where Ha Leeha was positioned?

– How is this possible? If he knew, he would have acted already! No, he would have just shot me!

Shimo, who had been advancing calmly, suddenly halted.

『Hmm…』

Floating in place, tilting his head, he began scanning the surroundings again. However, the distance between him and Leeha had already closed to 150 meters.

Leeha felt his heartbeat quicken.

Had Shimo realized something?

Did he stop deliberately to test him?

To put pressure on him and see how he would react?

‘No. No, he doesn’t know. His initial direction was probably just a coincidence.’

Leeha squinted his eyes and observed Shimo carefully.

When it seemed Shimo had regained his calm state, Leeha whispered again.

―Sorry, I couldn’t respond earlier. What did you say?

―Are you okay? Should I just tell you the locations through whispers?

―Hmm, even if you tell me, I’ll need to see for myself to be sure. Just tell me which fortresses are near each country’s paleo.

―Okay. First, Fibiel’s―

―Oh, oh! Again, again?!

―What? What are you talking about, suddenly!

‘How!? How did he know?’

At that moment, Shimo began to move again.

Every action he took, what did it mean when he moved precisely in Leeha’s direction?

‘No, that’s impossible. Could he have known from that?’

Leeha realized how Shimo could sense his presence!

To Leeha, who was watching his every motion, Shimo looked like the Grim Reaper himself.

* * *

‘He read my whispers!’

This was different from when the Kaztor incident was reported to him.

Was there something that could track the whispers of a hidden target within a certain range?

‘It’s not entirely impossible. There are communication jamming scrolls. If a whisper-ban scroll exists in the game, it wouldn’t be unreasonable for something that detects whispers to exist as well.’

Moreover, Shimo’s movements seemed a bit sluggish.

Leeha guessed that while Shimo could detect whispers, he could only estimate the general range or intensity, not pinpoint the exact location instantly.

If he could pinpoint the exact location through whispers, he would have fired a paintball immediately without such hesitation.

– Hyung? Hyung? What’s going on? The location only says it’s in Northern Shazrashian. Are you in a dangerous situation? Can’t respond via whispers?

Thump, thump, thump.

Kijung asked about Ha Leeha’s well-being in a concerned voice. However, Ha Leeha couldn’t reply.

If his speculation was correct, Shimo, already within a range closer to 150m, would be able to narrow down his exact position even further.

– In battle—Igor!? No, it can’t be. Nara said to Bobae that Igor, being a vampire, can only move at night. So, it can’t be him now. Ah! Then it must be Czar! Czar is attacking, isn’t he? Should I come?

‘Kijung, please, stop!’

Thump, thump, thump!

Shimo did not leave Ha Leeha’s vicinity.

Having once ‘locked on’ to a signal, it would not easily move to a completely different area. This was the basic principle of searching, and Ha Leeha knew it well.

He had to stay even quieter. Hide his presence even more.

– I have a Chain Teleport Scroll ready to use! Let me know if it’s dangerous, hyung!

– Ha Leeha-nim? Kijung says it seems dangerous right now. Are you okay? The Sacred Alliance’s expedition can proceed without me, so… should I come to you?

‘Argh, even Nara! Kijung, can’t you just stay quiet?’

Were they making a fuss because they were together?

Ha Leeha’s skull buzzed. Shimo, who had been looking around, began to turn towards him again.

– The Commander is participating in the expedition, so you not coming? You’re the last one to complete the second class advancement, and missing this event means you’ll be forever behind. By the way, Luger is here too.

– Heh… Kidd’s whispering nonsense again? That idiot seems to want you to come and take his side. Well, weaklings like you two have to band together to have any hope, so what can he do?

Thump, thump, thump!

‘Kidd and Luger too? These guys, normally they don’t even whisper, and now they’re nagging me? And who’s the slowest, if anything, I was faster than them—’

Shimo was now staring directly at Ha Leeha. He began to float in Ha Leeha’s direction.

‘Why? Why? I didn’t even whisper!’

He had been holding back on whispering on purpose, even though he had a mountain of things to say!

Ha Leeha’s heartbeat quickened. Naturally, his breath grew ragged. But had this given him away?

His breath didn’t show.

There were no snowflakes drifting from his nose.

There was no way to see him with the naked eye. So why…?

‘Ah.’

If he perfectly… perfectly blended into the surroundings, what would happen then?

How could he attack him if Leeha wasn’t there?
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Could Leeha say that he had now merged into nature? Could he say that he did not exist?

‘That’s impossible. There are people who know me and contact me. They even know my location. I completely exist and am exposed.’

First, he had to erase himself.

Ha Leeha turned his location to private in the friends’ window. He also blocked all whispers from permitted users.

He had to become perfect nature.

‘I am not even a human. I am not someone hiding under the snow… I am just the snow.’

Ha Leeha closed his eyes and steadied his breath.

The mind and heart, which had been cluttered with all sorts of whispers, began to regain calm.

How close had Shimo approached? Was he already pressing the muzzle to his forehead with a smile?

Or, was he shooting paintballs just avoiding the spot where Ha Leeha was hiding, enjoying the look of confusion?

‘These are distractions, just distractions. Nature doesn’t have thoughts.’

Ha Leeha made an effort to forget the rising wild thoughts.

He even tried to forget the effort of forgetting.

Whiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiist─……

The wind blew.

Ha Leeha opened his eyes again only after the quest completion alarm went off.

『White Reaper: Non-Existent Being―2』

You have completed the quest.

“… What? Already?”


Ha Leeha couldn’t believe that 14 hours had passed.

Shimo was nowhere to be seen. It was a dark night.

* * *

Shimo greeted Ha Leeha, who entered with a bewildered face, warmly.

『Honestly, I didn’t expect much. Did I give too many hints?』

“Um… well… What exactly happened again―”

It was a new experience for Ha Leeha as well.

During Sergeant Kim’s training, enduring for several hours lying down was basic, and he even endured for 2 nights and 3 days, suppressing the need for all bodily functions.

‘But back then… somehow, it was different.’

A sense of reality.

Simply gritting one’s teeth and enduring because one was told to, versus clearing all distractions to avoid being caught and achieve a desired purpose, were clearly different actions.

“Oh, but about the hint―”

『When you used the messenger magic, I approached you too obviously.』

“Ha, ha. That’s right. Because of that, I noticed….”

Become one with nature completely.

It was possible to have the experience of literally making his body seem like it had melted away because he could completely block out noise.

‘By turning off whispers, hiding my location, and making my existence faint in all the systems of Middle Earth.’

Recalling the strange experience, Ha Leeha nodded.

When he turned off the mute function and started apologizing to those who had worried about him, including Kijung, Shimo spoke again.

『If you can become one with nature, there will be no need to hide. I believe you can now erase your own existence.』


“Ah, yes.”

『Could you close your eyes?』

Ha Leeha lightly closed his eyes. He wasn’t scared as he had experienced this before.

『To the White Reaper… to the White Reaper…』

Haaaa…

Ha Leeha could feel the refreshing air entering through his nose and mouth.

─────────……!

『You have learned the skill “Melding Breath”.』

‘Yes!’

Last time it was the eyes. This time, it was the breath.

Suddenly, Ha Leeha felt a strange sensation.

‘It’s like… the White Reaper’s body? Flesh? No, that’s already gone― um, essence? It feels like receiving something like that directly.’

Considering the name of the quest and the skill, as well as everything the White Reaper had said, Ha Leeha believed his guess was correct.

『Hooooo… How do you feel?』

“Wait a moment. Let me check.”

〈Beginner’s Melding Breath (Lv.1)〉

Description: ‘I’ do not exist.

Effect: Absolute Stealth

― Negates detection and search skills and scrolls

― 50% reduction in skill-based damage while in the stealth state


― Blocks all means of communication, including whispers, while the skill is active

Mana: 2,000

Duration: Until canceled

Cooldown: 24 hours

‘The first condition is similar to camouflage. But the second and third…’

A 50% reduction in skill-based damage!

It’s safe to say that magical attacks account for most attacks, and even for melee classes, except for a few “basic attack”-based jobs, the majority rely on skills for their main attacks.

What if this was applied in PvP?

‘When the enemy disappears before their eyes, there wouldn’t be anyone swinging wildly with basic attacks. Extreme fear would first make them use skills, which would mean―’

It would be an attack that barely scratches Ha Leeha.

Although it consumed a whopping 2,000 mana and had a 24-hour cooldown, the critical difference from camouflage was that there were no “movement restrictions”.

‘And this is just because it’s a beginner, a level 1 skill! As the level and grade rise!’

The cooldown time would decrease.

Mana consumption might increase somewhat, but the damage reduction in the stealth state due to skill attacks would also increase!

“Hehehe… Hihihi… Incredible, even at this beginner’s stage.”

『By the time you can perfectly replicate my breath, people won’t be able to step on the ground you’re standing on.』

“What? Not even knowing where I am― Seriously? You weren’t just saying that?”

『Ha ha, I don’t speak empty word. Of course, it’s a fact that I’ve only just come to realize myself. It would have been better if the past me could have known.』

“Unbelievable…”

Leeha understood Shimo’s expression precisely.

The phrase “won’t be able to step on the ground you’re standing on” meant it wasn’t even tangible.

‘Wait, does that mean it can ignore even basic attacks? That’s insane, it’s so overpowered. That can’t be true.’

If the skill reached Legendary proficiency and the level was maxed out, could something additional appear?

But even Leeha’s “Musket Mastery” skill had not yet reached the Legendary level, showing how difficult it was to upgrade a skill.

The fact that even Shimo, as a mystical creature, had only just learned this, suggested that, however hard Leeha tried to use a skill with a 24-hour cooldown, it was unlikely to achieve that level.

‘Still! Who cares! Just knowing there’s such a possibility!’

He felt like dancing!

Seeing Shimo smile, Leeha scampered over like a puppy.

“So, what should I do next? What needs to be done to truly become the White Reaper and complete the Ritual?”

『Ho, it seems you already know what I’m going to say.』

“Um, yes!”

Because he had seen the rewards in the quest window.

Leeha glossed over the matter. However, Shimo did not bring up the quest window again.

“Shimo?”

『Unfortunately, I cannot give you a trial at this moment.』

“What? But Shimo, I thought time was―”

『No, there is still enough time. This can only be done after you’ve met our people and examined the remaining records.』

“―Ah!?”

A preceding quest.

Leeha had not yet cleared 『Panrind People: The Truth』.

The condition to clear that quest was to peruse the “Records” held by the Panrind people.

“So, it’s only possible after I see those records?”

『That’s right. It’s not that I wish to belittle you…』

“I understand. I can feel it just from the look in your eyes.”

He could have felt anxious but instead, Leeha felt joy.

What could the records held by the Panrind people be?

What records must be seen to complete the Ritual?

‘It must be a book left behind by one of the past 《Arcane Sniper》. So, the quest for the Ritual… and the content derived from that quest—’

Likely had a strong connection to the “White Reaper.”

Realizing this made Leeha feel a bit regretful.

He had thought he could learn a few more skills to become the White Reaper, but had he already reached the end?

‘Of course, skills like “Distorted Vision” and “Melding Breath” are totally overpowered, but… well, let’s think positively. Having two overpowered skills is better than ten useless ones.’

Were there any useless skills among the second job advancement jobs?

“Uh— Shimo, about those wing-like things on your back… is there no way I could get those?”

『Hmm? What do you mean by no way?』

Leeha coveted those wings.

Did it pass through the wall because it was a spirit form, or did it pass through because of those wings?

Did it float around because it was a spirit form, or did it float because of those wings?

“No, just. That… I am also a White Reaper. If I had just one of those, it would look good and enhance my presence. I think it would be great.”

『I’m not sure what you mean by ‘presence’, but this has nothing to do with being a White Reaper.』

“Then what is it?”

『I acquired it personally.』

“… Oh, I see. Could you perhaps give me a hint on where you obtained it?”

Ha Leeha chuckled softly, rubbing both hands together.

If it wasn’t a skill but an item, wouldn’t it be even better?

‘Three days until I meet Aner. Hehe. If I do this well… 〈Bargain〉!’

He felt a surge of anticipation, thinking he might be able to show the Panrind tribe a ‘complete form’ White Reaper.

* * *

Although it was deep into the night outside, the interior of the cave dazzled brilliantly.

The splendor, resembling a section taken from a grand banquet hall, contrasted unrealistically with the raw stone walls.

“Welcome, Kaztor! It has been a while, indeed.”

“… Le.”

With his arms wide open, Bluebeard greeted Kaztor.

Back in the form of Rotzak, Kaztor glanced around.

As soon as Chiyou met his eyes, she lifted her dress slightly in greeting.

“Even though we’ve met before, I should greet you properly. I am Chiyou, Kaztor.”

“… You were the envoy from Minis, weren’t you? Ha, I see.”

“Yes, that’s correct.”

Kaztor chuckled incredulously, but Chiyou accepted his laughter with a warm smile.

‘It really was Kaztor. I suspected, but…’

Seeing Le’s elaborate preparations, Chiyou felt slightly bewildered.

It was clear that Bluebeard had been expecting someone, and as someone who knew nearly all the current happenings in Middle Earth, Chiyou could narrow down the candidates.

At the top of the list was Kaztor.

A dark elf causing trouble in the Old Continent with nowhere to go would naturally seek refuge here.

‘So I thought he would be overbearing.’

She expected Le to absorb Kaztor seamlessly.

But, this?

Le had hurriedly prepared not only decorations but also food, and Chiyou had found herself in an unexpected situation, having to don a dress.

“Come, come. Have a seat. Your life on the run must have been tough, huh? First, have some food—”

“You expect me to eat food that might be laced with something?”

“Why would you say such hurtful things! Tsk, tsk, what would I gain by poisoning you? Don’t you agree?”

Le began devouring the food from the head seat, as if to assure Kaztor it was safe.

Kaztor hesitatingly took a seat, seemingly reassured by Le’s actions.

Chiyou quickly poured wine into his glass.

Kaztor gave Chiyou a sidelong glance in Rotzak’s face but remained silent.
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“Everyone, take a seat! It certainly wasn’t easy to bring Sir Kaztor here, so you all did well.”

Bluebeard shouted toward the people standing at the entrance of the cave.

“What the hell is this situation? We went through all that trouble to bring him, and they’re just eating? Do you know how much effort it took to put out that fire—”

“Kuahahaha, how ridiculous.”

“……”

However, those who had just come from the battlefield couldn’t comprehend the situation.

“Pyro, Igor, Faust. Either sit quietly and eat, or if you don’t like it, wait outside.”

Chiyou ordered them as if she were their mother.

Pyro and Igor immediately turned around and went outside, while Faust alternated glances between Chiyou and Kaztor before settling on one side of the table.

“What’s this all about? I haven’t made a Lich Dragon since being told not to. Does it have anything to do with this magician?”

“Haha, all you need to do is eat quietly. Well, though it would be easier for me if you just left. But since you’re here, just listen to me carefully.”

“What are you trying to say—”

“So, what’s the plan now? After the meal, we’ll rest a bit! And once we’re energized—”

Bluebeard spoke with his mouth greasy from the meat.

“—we’ll have to go find it, right?”

He then glanced at Kaztor, trying to gauge his reaction.

Kaztor, who had been eating quietly, also paused.

“Well, doing something uncharacteristic like this means you must have some hidden agenda.”

“Hidden agenda? Sir Kaztor, your words are too harsh. I just want to say we should help each other.”


“Does providing a meal count as helping?”

“Not at all. You must already know that the enemy went to the east. You seem quite recovered… However, going alone would be difficult with those lingering injuries.”

Bluebeard also stopped eating and shifted focus to the main topic.

Kaztor and Le exchanged looks.

And Chiyou and Faust listened carefully to the top-level NPCs because every word they exchanged could be a crucial ‘hint.’

“So? With you yet to find Pyrot-Cockri, you’re not going to escort me personally, are you?”

“Hahaha… You know me too well. So well that it’s almost annoying, Professor.”

“Get to the point. What do you want, and what can you offer?”

Kaztor immediately interrupted him.

“Five bone dragons. I can even throw in a Lich Dragon if you want. But in return…”

Bluebeard slowly leaned towards Kaztor and opened his mouth.

“…let me fire the 《Arcane Bullet》.”

Le grinned, baring his teeth.

***

‘Of course, it was a gift! No, to be precise, it was not a gift; it was the payment for a deal!’

With eyes wide open, Faust alternately looked at Kaztor and Bluebeard, trying to grasp what this meant. However, Chiyou remained unshaken.

She only enjoyed a light shiver of satisfaction, as her predictions had somewhat aligned with the reality.

This was because the most crucial detail had yet to emerge.

“Kukuku… Bluebeard, the one called the Count of Demon Nobles, is not handling it personally?”

As Kaztor laughed, Bluebeard patted his shoulder with a pitiful expression.


“If only I could. But it seems I’ve grown old as my body aches. Both you and I roughly know where those guys are hiding… No matter how capable you are, it would be hard for you to go there alone.”

“Give me five Lich Dragons, ten Bone Dragons, and ten Manticores.”

“—What?”

Bluebeard was momentarily flustered.

At that moment, Faust, who seemed to have just figured something out, hastily whispered to Chiyou, but she ignored him completely.

Kaztor stared fixedly at Bluebeard.

“With those terms, I might consider it. But nothing less.”

“Look here, sir. Manticores are products of Ghibrid. How can I—”

“Then let’s pretend this conversation never happened.”

“Either way! Either way, you have to bring them! Let’s start with that. I’ll give you the Lich Dragons and Bone Dragons right away. And if you bring Arcane Sniper here, then… I’ll throw in the Manticores as well. Would that do? There’s always the down payment and the balance in a contract, right? As someone who has lived among humans for a long time, you should know this well.”

Bluebeard spoke almost pleadingly.

What could be the reason that made this Demon King’s Fragment, the mightiest monster of Middle Earth without any fear, beg like a mere swindler?

‘Arcane Bullet… I’ve heard of it before, but what on earth is it? Weren’t they the Demon King’s Fragment?’

While Bluebeard’s mention confirmed their existence, Chiyou knew this much and no more.

Even with her vast information network, knowledge about Arcane Bullet’s Shooters and their prowess was limited, known to no more than three ‘users’ in all of Middle Earth.

“Good. Transfer ownership now.”

“Of course! Absolutely! Hey, Faust!”

Bluebeard immediately called out Faust’s name.

Faust, who had not been eating for a while, glared at Chiyou with a face full of anger.

“Faust! What are you doing!”


“Th-that, well… Count…”

The leopard-patterned scales dotted with black shook slightly. Just before he spoke, Chiyou spoke up first.

“Oh my, things are so tangled. Faust and Igor have managed to collect only two Lich Dragons and four Bone Dragons so far.”

“What!? What—what are you talking about, Chiyou?”

“Things haven’t gone smoothly because there are forces opposing them on the Lope Continent… it seems the two of them had difficulty handling it all.”

– Shut up! You— you are the reason we can’t make more Lich Dragons—

– Can’t you stay quiet? Fool, you still don’t understand my intentions after coming this far?

No sooner had Chiyou finished speaking than Faust’s whisper erupted.

Chiyou maintained a smiling face while looking at Bluebeard but directed a stern whisper at Faust.

“Hehehe… So, you’ve gone that far. The name of the Demon King’s Fragment will cry.”

“… Kaztor, your tongue is too loose. You know very well that crossing the line won’t do any good.”

Kaztor froze for a moment, staring at Bluebeard, then stood up, brushing off his seat.

“If it’s two liches and four bones, no amount of manticore would be needed either way. Let’s pretend the matter you mentioned earlier didn’t happen

“Hold on, hold on, master of Magic.”

As Kaztor stood up, Chiyou quickly followed suit.

She immediately hooked her arm into Kaztor’s.

“Hmm?”

“Oh, come on. I’ve experienced our esteemed Lord Rotzark’s excellent personality and meticulous calculation skills since my days in Minis. You’re not someone to give up so easily.”

“……”

Kaztor alternated his gaze between Chiyou and Bluebeard.

However, Bluebeard was equally bewildered.

“Chiyooo?”

Though the words “What are you doing?” didn’t follow, the call was sufficient in its undertone.

Chiyou recklessly replied as she looked at Le.

“Failing to secure the lich dragon is, in a sense, my responsibility and that of my subordinates. Nevertheless, this should not jeopardize the Count’s and Master’s—no, teacher’s—friendship… So, what I’m saying is.”

“Ah.”

Faust let out a small exclamation.

‘That girl, since when… Since when did she start planning this scenario, telling us not to make any more lich dragons?’

Why did she instruct us not to create more lich dragons?

Why did she defy Bluebeard’s orders to do so?

Chiyou tightened her grip on Kaztor’s arm and addressed Bluebeard.

“If possible, we could… help Kaztor-nim… What do you think?”

Chiyou anticipated that the lich dragon would be used as a “gift.”

She couldn’t be sure to whom or with what intention it would be given, but if she could weaken that gift, what would happen next?

― Indeed, indeed. So, instead of merely doing simple tasks under Le, you intend to delve a bit deeper. Understood.

With a satisfied laugh, Faust whispered back to Chiyou.

Gathering lich dragons was a quest for Igor and Faust, and they had failed at it.

Was this the reason they bore even some penalties and committed such acts?

‘Arcane Bullet? If Bluebeard was obsessed with it, it must be something incredible.’

He could investigate its true identity. Maybe, he might even obtain it.

Faust naturally thought along those lines.

However, Chiyou did not act according to his thoughts.

“Oh, right. I’d like to bring my subordinates, but unfortunately, they have difficulties moving around during the day… So, it seems I’ll have to go alone. What do you think, Count?”

“What, what!? What nonsense are you talking about! Chiyou, you—!”

– Shut up. I told you to follow my lead and keep quiet. Don’t act foolishly and recklessly! If you stay still, I’ll take care of everything. How many times do I have to remind you that you can’t defy me, so why do you keep acting up?

– You, ugh— you—

Faust trembled vehemently.

Who would have thought she’d let others sacrifice themselves as scapegoats for her failed quest while she found a way to move alone!

“Hmm, a second-generation Bathory.”

“Oh my, you recognized it?”

“I could never forget the stench of vampires. Well, if the ‘Vampire Queen’ tags along, it might help a bit, but still, it wouldn’t be enough.”

“Didn’t Kaztor-nim just mention it? I am Bathory. But I’m also human. At night, like other vampires… and during the day, I’ll use what I’ve been utilizing since my days as the ‘Envoy of Minis’… to assist.”

Chiyou released her grip on Kaztor’s arm and elegantly lifted her dress, bowing politely once again.

The gesture, meaning ‘I trust in you’, indicated her confidence that Kaztor would accept her proposal.

Watching the scene unfold, Bluebeard approached Kaztor with a smile.

He exchanged words about looking forward to their journey and how it would be a tough road ahead, but inside Chiyou’s mind, a different voice of Bluebeard resonated.

“Alright… I’ll let you go.”

“I knew you’d understand that this is the best way.”

“… Sly one…”

“Pardon?”

Chiyou glanced briefly at Bluebeard upon hearing his voice laced with coldness.

He had never revealed such hostility in such a manner before.

It was a remark providing a clue on how Bluebeard perceived Chiyou.

“Remember this. Make sure you secure Arcane Sniper. I will not tolerate another blunder… whether it was a mistake or a scheme, you know this. Do you understand?”

“Of course… I understand what you’re saying, Count!”

Why did Chiyou become Bathory?

From the beginning, Bluebeard harbored a grudge against Chiyou for that very reason.

“But you mentioned ‘securing Arcane Sniper’… Does that mean securing it ‘from Kaztor’?”

Bluebeard mentioned the right to a single shot to Kaztor, but what could his words mean to Chiyou now?

To Chiyou’s question, Bluebeard merely bared his teeth.

In the cave filled with different desires, the night deepened.
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“Hmm… No luck.”

Ha Leeha scrolled through a website detailing information about Middle Earth, but he couldn’t find what he was looking for.

In Middle Earth, where information was as good as currency and power, it was hard to find useful information even on the official website. Therefore, user-created sites, especially the highly reliable ones, held immense value.

“There isn’t even a category for wings under items. Not even a similar name in the accessories category.”

Ha Leeha had never seen anyone with wings in Middle Earth while playing. Excluding situations where someone transformed into an animal, nobody in a human form had wings.

“They aren’t in the auction house, can’t be found through search, and there’s no special mention in the community… <Liberated Legend>.”

It was impressive that he managed to find out the item’s name. He had fiercely negotiated with Shimo using the <Bargaining> skill to finally get additional information.

However, despite his efforts, the <Liberated Legend> wing item was nowhere to be found in Middle Earth.

“He said it was located in the northernmost region… Do I really have to go there? But if it’s legendary, there won’t be many of them- Thinking about when Shimo was executed…”

Ha Leeha had a rough idea of where the <Liberated Legend> might be. The Shazrashian Federation probably had a place where they kept their treasures, like any other nation.

‘They would have confiscated it before the execution. So it could be in the royal treasury- no, the presidential office? But isn’t the president elected? It’s not based on lineage. Would each president have access to the treasury?’

Thinking that far, Ha Leeha got confused. The most likely place for the <Liberated Legend> to be would be a site with such a function. Shimo might have found a way to hide his gun at home but couldn’t manage with the wings.

It would be great if he could just extract the item from the spirit. The spirit must be an embodiment of his desired appearance, reminiscent of Shimo’s grand feats during the ‘Winter War’.

“Hmm, first, I should finish the Pandril Tribe quest. I don’t even know where the northern end of Shazrashian is.”

During the days Ha Leeha spent with Shimo, countless giants had passed by that place. Their official reason was resource development, but they had crossed the ruins imbued with Shimo’s grudge and installed a warp gate on the northern end.

‘So that’s probably the direction.’

Although he had some rough hints, he anticipated it would take a lot of time to start a full-on exploration. Unless the giants cleared the path and marked out the map sufficiently, the chances of getting lost would only increase.

‘Fernand doesn’t… Come to think of it, wasn’t it called Laputa or something? They said they found a floating island in the sky.’

The name was undoubtedly given by the Pope, but nobody knew what it was or how to access it yet. Ha Leeha also heard about it through videos of the <Sacred Alliance>’s expedition and from acquaintances.

“Hehe, Alexander and Lee Jiwon. They always bicker about killing each other, but they team up well at times like this.”


The Desire for Something New.

Since the new continent opened and the level cap was lifted, leehowe’s consciousness towards Alexander had been in a half-awake state. To reach the top, rather than fighting and killing each other to lower levels, one had to grow in such a way that no other user could catch up.

Leeha knew very well that killing Alexander could be done next, and Alexander, having understood this, accepted him without any objections. To the extent that he even recruited Fernand, forming a team of three.

Leeha took a sip of coffee and then headed towards the Middle Earth access device. Having completed his sleep and meals, his steps were light and fully recharged. He waved at Blaugrunn warmly.

“No issues, right?”

“Of course. What issues would there be?”

Blaugrunn smiled at Leeha. Blaugrunn’s words meant that nothing happened because his guard was tight, but Leeha heard it a bit differently.

‘Why did such a failure condition even exist?’

Was it just a precaution against any potential accidents? Or, indeed, what would have happened if Blaugrunn hadn’t kept the guard? There was only one reason why Leeha was thinking this way.

If he had called Blaugrunn on the day he encountered Kaztor at ‘the buoy’, the result might have been different.

“Lark would say, ‘What is bound to happen, happens’, and that it couldn’t have been prevented anyway….”

Feeling both unfair and strangely calm at the same time, he realized that Lark’s words had significantly influenced him. Not just the Kaztor incident, but Lark had the insight to observe the overall flow of the game and often emphasized the importance of distinguishing between events that players could prevent and those that would inevitably occur due to Middle Earth’s system.

“Why the sudden frown?”

“No, just thinking about someone who never says good things nicely, always does so with hidden intentions.”

If only he had a slightly better way of speaking, he might have become a close friend. Leeha shook his head as he thought about Lark and knocked on the general store’s door where Aner was.

“Aner?”

“Ha Leeha! Come in!” Aner greeted Leeha with the same appearance as Lizardia. Although nobody was inside the store, perhaps it was Aner’s way to show determination not to reveal his true form without strict ‘door control.’

“Hasn’t discrimination disappeared now?”

“Haha, it’s become a habit. There’s nothing good about them knowing that we possess such abilities.”

“Uh… Then, it seems there’s no reason to have drafted the Charter of Rights.”


“Everything will gradually get resolved. And just the fact that our children won’t have to go through such efforts anymore makes me extremely happy. Now, come on in.”

Aner led Leeha and Blaugrunn inside, quickly going behind the counter to fetch a scroll.

“The entire council, including the elders, is already gathered. They are anxiously awaiting the arrival of the White Reaper.”

“It’s a teleport scroll.”

Aner locked the shop door with a smile instead of answering. Given the situation of moving together with Blaugrunn, what could there be to fear?

“Let’s go”, said Ha Leeha pleasantly, unfolding the scroll. In an instant, engulfed in a flash of light, Ha Leeha, Blaugrunn, and Aner arrived somewhere in Shazrashian. From a considerably high vantage point, they could look down below, and on the snow-covered plain beneath them…

“We’re hereeeee!”

“That’s him! That’s Ha Leeha!”

“Our people’s hero-”

“-The new White Reaper has arrived!”

Cheering rose from the crowd of people. Among them, Ha Leeha appeared the most bewildered.

What surprised him more were the people gathered here. Quite a number of surviving Pandril individuals had giant forms.

“They are a minority race, but this original giant-?”

“Do you think a minority race consists of just a few dozens of people? As I mentioned earlier…”

“Transformation? So many people can hide their appearance in the form of another race?” he thought with disbelief.

“The Pandril people are something else- No, it’s not the Pandril people who are impressive…”

As Ha Leeha pondered, an old man resembling a human approached him, clutching a book to his chest.

“Was it ‘Matan’s Shooter’ who left this record? That alone could make them this way?”

Aner bowed his head towards the old man, and Ha Leeha greeted him belatedly as well.

The old man hurriedly helped Ha Leeha to stand up.


“Raise your head, White Reaper. It is I who should be bowing to our people’s hero.”

And then he bowed his head.

“Ex, executive Chairman!”

All the Pandril people in the lowlands, including Aner, fell silent. Even without the title of ‘Chairman’, Ha Leeha could tell that this old man held considerable importance.

“No, uh, excuse me-”

Ha Leeha tried to stop him, but the chairman only raised his head after properly showing his respect. Ha Leeha could see the tears welling in his eyes.

“To think I would witness such a sight in my lifetime… I never dreamed of experiencing this…”

“Oh, it’s nothing. It wasn’t my doing. I just built upon what the previous White Reaper from the Pandril people, Shimo, had set up.”

Ha Leeha’s words spread quietly but significantly, and as the name of their people’s hero was mentioned, the Pandril individuals began to murmur again.

The chairman, after shedding tears, suddenly remembered something and handed a book to Ha Leeha.

“I heard you were looking for this from Aner.”

“This is… that….”

“This record has been passed down through our people for generations. Although we don’t even know who left it for us, we are an ungrateful people….”

The chairman spoke in a faint voice, but Ha Leeha understood him well enough.

“No! No! That’s just how it is. Yes, that’s how it is indeed.”

“What? What do you mean by ‘that’s how it is’?”

“The one who left this record surely anticipated this outcome, which is why they left it behind. Just keeping it safe until now would make them happy.”

Ha Leeha had no idea how many generations ago the “Matan’s Shooter” left this record. They must have already reconciled themselves to the eventual disappearance of their existence. Had the Shazrashian marksmen cleared the quest, would they have chosen this path?

Ha Leeha pondered for a moment, but for now, such matters were not important.

“May I have a look at it?”

“Of course, as much as you like.”

Ha Leeha took the book from the chairman and opened it immediately. Blaugrunn looked at it with curious eyes.

『Is it true that writing my name like this leaves no trace? Hey, sorry, but could you check if you can see my name right now? My name is ※:※Nunu *※Jaejkeje』… Ahn??

“Wow, this is… seriously! It’s different from magic, isn’t it? Blur processing?”

Blaugrunn exclaimed excitedly, pointing to a part of the book. Only the sections with the name appeared blurry. Ha Leeha rubbed his eyes and looked again, but it was the same.

The chairman sighed and nodded as if it was inevitable.

Ugh… like this? What is this atmosphere? This soaring language—besides, in Max Hescok’s diary, the names were clearly visible.

The “Matan’s Shooter Diary” Kaztor had possessed clearly showed the names. Was there a difference between it and this? Could it be that this wasn’t “Matan’s Shooter”?

No way! There’s the name Zamiel! But ‘that Zamiel guy’? It’s as if speaking of a friend…. Kaztor was a dark elf, wasn’t he? Did Max Hescok use something from the dark elves to fully preserve his name in the records?

The dark elves knew about the power of God. Although they couldn’t utilize it themselves, did they have a way to partially avoid the penalty of “Matan’s Shooter’s” ‘disappearance’?

The chief at that time didn’t mention such things. Well, considering Kaztor carried all the books around, it’s possible he didn’t know. When Max Hescok found the dark elf village, such actions might have been possible. If no measures were taken, even if records were left behind, the names would get erased like this.

“Ha Leeha-nim, what are you doing! Hurry up!”

“Oh, yes. Got it.”

(To be continued…)
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『They had become people who habitually cowered. They were even more fearful than squirrels searching for a burrow. Zamiel, frustrated, suggested getting rid of them, but I could understand them quite well. As someone of humble birth and an outcast from a secluded tribe, I wasn’t any different from them.』

‘Again, Zamiel… Even starting with a technique mentioning the friendly Panrind tribe made the entire text confusing from the start. 『In a world where might equals respect, the sorrow of those without power is immense. I remember being called nothing but ‘the unlucky ****’ until I made a name for myself through the war with Minis after joining the army.』

“There is another censored part here. Hmm, I don’t feel any mana, so I can’t read it. It’s certain there are letters here, though.”

Blaugrunn tilted his head and changed angles trying different perspectives. If he could see it, he would have reacted somehow. Ha Leeha watched Blaugrunn hum and turn the pages again.

『However, if you have strength… If you can prove your strength, the treatment changes completely. Not only for yourself but for every organization you are affiliated with! I also became a different person after receiving this rifle by chance on the battlefield. I sometimes wonder if I was too greedy back then, but it can’t be helped.』

『Anyway, I want to help them. Zamiel, who seems to find everything amusing, is only smiling and not stopping me. So, it’s okay to help, right? He better not say otherwise later.』

“Again, again-”

“What is it, Ha Leeha?”

-Blaugrunn, you know I’ve been into the memories of a former Matan’s Shooter from the journal, right?

-Of course. I was also very curious about it.

-At that time, there was… some unknown entity in the realm of the Matan’s Shooter. It realized when we entered the memory, and it’s like a spirit attached to the rifle.

-You don’t mean-

-Yes. It’s that name that keeps appearing now.

Zamiel.

Blaugrunn looked at Ha Leeha in surprise. As someone knowledgeable about Matan’s Shooter, Blaugrunn could understand everything quickly just from Ha Leeha’s brief explanation.

“How could that be? To be with someone trying to destroy you…”

“Exactly. What kind of…?”

What was that attitude towards an old friend?

“What will you do if he changes his words later? You’re already a vanished being!”

Could he not know about Matan? Did he not know that using the seven bullets would immediately obliterate his existence?


『From learning how to change their appearance to handling new firearms. I taught them everything. Perhaps because they were accustomed to hiding and living in a crouched position, they quickly learned how to alter their appearances… but it is unfortunate that only a few truly learned how to handle firearms. I think I have done my part sufficiently. Even if, as Zamiel said, my name disappeared and my existence vanished. As long as there is a trace that I was here, I am content with that.』

The contents of this particular book ended there. In the meantime, there were various other digressions, but at least the main contents, involving Matan’s Shooter and Zamiel, were all classified here.

“You know it. You know it all. But how can you take this attitude?”

Isn’t this the mindset a casual user would have when they play Middle Earth for pure enjoyment, rather than a heavy-hitting ranker or outsider-level player?

Could NPCs have such a mindset?

These are unique beings that exist only in this world, living their lives here.

Ha Leeha took a moment to compose himself before asking the Chairman.

“Chairman. You’ve read all of this too, haven’t you?”

“Of course. At first, we tried to find out from every possible source if Zamiel` knew the one who left this record… but we couldn’t find him.”

“Of course- oh, of course, that would be the case.”

“It is humbling. That person saw through the weaknesses of our people clearly. However, even through oral traditions, it is said that he never looked down on us. On the contrary, he devoted his body, mind, and soul to help those in the same situation as himself.”

Leeha nodded as he listened to the Chairman’s words. He couldn’t grasp what exactly this person did, but considering the Chairman’s expression, ‘devoting body, mind, and soul’ did seem logical in a way.

‘Working hard for those in the same situation… surely his condition was even worse.’

Matan always had to be used in regular cycles, and if not, penalties were imposed. This was evident enough from both Max Hescok and Kyle.

In other words, despite having a life set on a timer, he was strong enough to work for others.

“He was an incredible person.”

“He was- hmm?!”

“Ah, ah…!”

Suddenly, light emanated from the book that Ha Leeha was holding.

“Be careful, Ha Leeha- !” Blaugrunn swiftly shielded Ha Leeha. The light soon vanished, and nothing happened around them.


“Are you alright?”

“It’s…?”

The Chairman pointed at the book. Ha Leeha, unable to answer Blaugrunn’s question, reopened the book.

Rustle, rustle, rustle-!

『That fellow Zamiel might not know, but the truth is there is some ambition involved. If, someday… word of these deeds spreads. If the name of this nation becomes widely known, surely someone will come looking for ‘my’ traces. Perhaps, it might even be you, the person reading this now, who knows about Zamiel and knows about me.』

“Uwaaaaaaaaah!”

“This, this can’t be! What is this-?”

Just when he thought it was over, another layer of information was revealed.

‘He hid it!? He hid the text- Ah!’

He was someone who had an extraordinary talent for disguising his appearance.

Even with the dragon’s mana, he couldn’t be detected as a polymorph. It might have been no problem for him to transform the contents of the record into ordinary sheets of paper.

What were the activation conditions hidden within the contents? Were all users pursuing the traces of Matan’s Shooter the target? Was the qualification given only to those who confirmed the <White Reaper> from the White Reaper?

In any case, the unknown Matan’s Shooter had anticipated this situation.

“Ha Leeha! This- this- can’t be!”

“… a magic circle.”

The one who discovered it was Ha Leeha. It was a magic circle mentioned in the journal left behind by Max Hescok. The hidden magic circle had now revealed itself.

***

The chairman of the Panrind Council immediately evacuated the people. Although many of the 1,400 lingered to catch another glimpse of Ha Leeha, he requested people step back, knowing the power of the magic circle.

Along with the chairman, a select few from the elder council, Ha Leeha, and their contact Aner moved to another location.

“Ha Leeha, this is…”


“Probably another record left by ‘him’. I have seen something similar before. It allows you to experience a specific period from that person’s point of view.”

“It’s called memory reconstruction magic”, Blaugrunn supplemented Ha Leeha’s explanation.

“Oh! Then we-”

“But there may be limits to the number of people or qualifications. The fact that this magic circle suddenly appeared…”

“And above all, if it is used once, it becomes impossible to use it a second time. We must consider the likelihood that the magic’s reconstruction is a one-time occurrence, human”, Blaugrunn cautioned.

The members of the elder council approached Ha Leeha, but soon halted all movements, understanding the gravity of his and Blaugrunn’s explanation.

“Then it would be most appropriate for Ha Leeha, or rather, the White Reaper, to view it.”

“Would that be acceptable, chairman?”

“Of course. If Ha Leeha had not come, we wouldn’t have known it existed anyway.”

Finding it uncomfortable to speak directly, Ha Leeha had looked around nervously. He then expressed his gratitude to Chairman 1480, who had readily given his permission, and prepared together with Blaugrunn.

“Hold on tight, so you don’t fall.”

“Don’t worry. I protected you even in that unexpected situation last time, remember?”

“Ho, Blaugrunn, you’re the best. Well then… I’m off.”

“Yes. Have a good journey.”

Ha Leeha placed his hand on the magic circle.

A blinding light pierced into Ha Leeha’s mind.

“Hmm, it’s a little different from using mana. It’s more like blending in with nature! Don’t you get that kind of feeling? Once that’s possible, transforming into other species won’t be a problem!” Ha Leeha could feel the energetic explanation, accentuated by hand and foot gestures.

“That, that’s not as easy as you…”

“It’s not easy, no, but you’ve got to do it! Once you’ve learned it, you can transform into a troll or an ogre, and we might even be able to stand against the great nations. This small village could turn the tide of a whole nation!”

The way of speaking, chattering without a pause, almost felt frivolous.

“Do you think that will really work?”

“Shut up, Zamiel. You can leave.”

On hearing Zamiel’s voice from behind, Ha Leeha felt his hackles rising, though the current ‘owner’ of the body responded nonchalantly.

“You’re treating me quite casually.”

Perhaps Zamiel was used to such treatment, as his voice resounded again.

“Transformations might be a mix of lizardia and miyao traits with your tribe’s vision, but you think they’ll understand my gun’s secrets and the matan too?”

Suddenly, the owner of the body turned around sharply. Ha Leeha saw Zamiel’s figure in the empty air directly.

‘Damn, he noticed!?’

Zamiel had recognized him when he had entered Max Hescok’s memory in the past. As Kidd had predicted, he was definitely the absolute entity moving across time and space in the Middle Earth game, having addressed the three musketeers!

Just as Ha Leeha tried to recall Zamiel’s appearance more vividly, and Zamiel attempted to grasp Ha Leeha through the eyes of the current ‘owner’s’ body, the body’s mouth opened once again.

“I promised, didn’t I? From the moment I gripped this rifle… yes, from the moment I made a deal with you out of my greed. Despite the lies and deception you used to take my soul, I’ve always known that the fooled are the fools, as I’ve heard often since I was young and experienced myself. That’s how the children of the uneducated grow up, isn’t it? Anyway, I conformed. For the period you decided, without refusal, I’ll use the matan and sacrifice my soul to you. In return, with no interference in what I do… we made an agreement.”

The previously frivolous voice was now nowhere to be heard. The words were imbued with strength, and the robust pronunciation and deep voice were sufficient to convey his resolve—to both Zamiel and Ha Leeha.

(To be continued…)
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“Contract? Wasn’t 《Matan’s Shooter》 about just holding this gun and firing the magic bullets? Was there a contract with Zamiel?”

This was something not mentioned in Max Hescok’s journal. If what was said now was true and applied to all Matan’s Shooters, it would mean that Max Hescok also had a contract with Zamiel.

While Ha Leeha was organizing his thoughts, Zamiel spoke again. His gaze, which had been targeting the owner of the physical body, had softened a bit.

= … Yes, I promised. But saying I deceived you is displeasing. You were greedy to make a name for yourself in the war against your enemy nation. My power wasn’t necessary just for your survival. You wanted to achieve even more to raise your status and prestige, and so we made a contract for that purpose. =

“Um… strictly speaking, it was to enhance the rights of our discriminated village and tribe by my achievements… And when there’s an offer to blow off the enemy’s commander’s head just by pulling the trigger, which crazy man would reject that? Logically speaking. It was an irresistible temptation. Ha, I shouldn’t have fallen for it.”

The owner of the physical body spoke as if he had lost a game. His tone did not reflect someone coming to terms with the destruction of his existence and the loss of his soul.

= Hehehe… So, was it that your pitiful youth made you decide to help them now? =

“There is some of that. Why? Got a problem?”

At this point, Ha Leeha wanted to make a bewildered expression. Who exactly was this madman? Judging by the fighting with Minis and Zamiel talking about an enemy nation, he seemed to be a citizen of Fibiel. Were there such kinds of people among the citizens of Fibiel?

The owner of the physical body was treating Zamiel with disdain, so much that it was frustrating that Ha Leeha couldn’t move his face. Zamiel had to briefly mask his expression due to the owner’s audacity.

= Fine. No one has ever conformed to fate like you. If it’s your and my contract, I, too, must keep it. Do as you please, 《Matan’s Shooter》. =

“Call me by my name until my soul becomes yours. I am still alive.”

= Is that so? Then just remember there is only one shot left, Francis Pegamanabo. =

Ha Leeha finally heard his name.

“Francis… I’ve heard that name somewhere before. Or have I? Pegamanabo? Pegamanabo… lot of misfires?”

While Ha Leeha was contemplating the peculiar family name, Zamiel’s eyes briefly sparkled. Ha Leeha did not notice that brief moment.

“No, it’s not Pegamanabo! Damn it! Another joke with names!”

Finally, Ha Leeha realized who the model for this shooter was.

“Haha… there have been snipers before, but if you’re talking about someone who started to gain this level of fame, the first one… Indeed. It makes sense, considering the discrimination, the tribe, and coming from a humble background.”

Francis fervently explained his method of disguise to the Panrind people back in time.


Although Ha Leeha could not fully comprehend the previous explanations or concepts due to the gaps in his understanding, he did not feel much regret.

“Besides, I have my monocle and the <Melting Breath> I learned this time. I’m not particularly interested in transforming into other races.”

What intrigued Ha Leeha was Matan. What exactly was it?

After gathering the Pandrilians and explaining for a long time, the leader finally instructed them to practice and then headed elsewhere.

In a corner of the village, which had snow-covered backgrounds both past and present, there was a small smithy with an empty lot beside it.

Bang———…!

“Oh! Impressive!”

“Francis, sir!”

Francis embraced the little kid running toward him.

At the spot where targets were set up, a considerable number of people were practicing shooting.

‘It’s systematic. As expected, this person’s abilities gave them these firearms.’ Judging by the noise coming from the smithy, it seemed they hadn’t established a mass production system yet.

They were probably at the level where they could barely make a few muskets in a small village smithy. However, even if they could produce just 100 firearms similar to the Mosin-Nagant in the musket era, the difference in firepower would be incomparable.

“Look at this, I can do it up to here now.”

Whoooom……!

“Whoa- That’s, that’s it!”

If the skill effect was similar to what Shimo used in <White Reaper>, then there was no need for further explanation. Ha Leeha watched as Koma’s arm and the rifle fused together. However, it was not yet as perfect as what Shimo had shown.

“That’s amazing! Alright. That’s enough for now. If you keep practicing slowly, you’ll become much better than me!”

“Sir, you have seven of these skills! I want to learn all of them… Can’t you teach me everything?”

The child looked up at Francis with sparkling eyes.

Francis patted Koma’s head.


“You greedy rascal! I’d love to teach you everything, but I can’t. Without my gun, you can’t use the skills, and even then, you need the right weather and situation. Without my gun, in a place where it’s snowing heavily, there’s only one type of bullet you can use.”

“Then give me your gun, sir. I want to be like you!”

The child pouted.

Ha Leeha realized that the outsider Francis had already blended in here quite well.

“You want to be like me?”

“Yes!”

The corners of Francis’ mouth lifted. Ha Leeha could sense that Francis was smiling from the movement of his face, though there was a hint of sadness in his tone.

“I can’t really tell you to become Matan’s Shooter.”

Thinking it was probably because he couldn’t talk about adult matters, Ha Leeha was about to dismiss it when Francis spoke again.

“Then, when you grow up… cross the sea, to where the sun rises. Go to the place where the sun rises first in that land. Even there, go to the place where you can see the sunrise first.”

“Excuse me? Beyond the sea? They said there’s nothing there, though?”

“Hehe, right? So… until you go there yourself, never, never, never ever think of becoming like that me. Got it?”

Ha Leeha listened to Francis with wide eyes. Why did he leave behind this memory? Why did he hide the magic circle from Zamiel and entrust a booklet to a nameless minority group this far from Fibiel?

‘These words… they are about the New Continent beyond the Sea of Dawn.’

He never mentioned it directly. But every word he uttered so far was a hint related to Matan and a kind of signal, hoping that whoever saw his memories would catch on!

Was it because Zamiel was listening that he couldn’t be more blatant? Yet, even this could already be considered quite explicit.

‘Did Francis visit the New Continent? Is that why he’s saying this—but no, it doesn’t seem like he’s been there before. Moreover, if humans had visited, the paleo people would have known. So, he must have heard about it? The place where you can see the sunrise first in the New Continent…’

The eastern end.

Where had Elizabeth and Brown gone? Who accompanied them as they headed east, further east in the New Continent?

The current “Matan’s Shooter” and their child, Kyle.


“Something related to Matan’s Shooter is there.”

=aren’t you talking a bit too much?=

Zamiel’s interjection was akin to a seal of approval for Ha Leeha’s speculation.

“Didn’t you say you wouldn’t interfere, Zamiel? You’re not the type to go back on your word, are you?”

Francis patted the boy and sent him back to the practice field, smiling broadly as he turned around. Zamiel’s expression was somewhat stiff, which Ha Leeha also sensed.

“And wouldn’t it be better if I spoke?”

=Why do you think so.=

“Because you want people to be interested in Matan’s Shooter. You want more people to covet it, to approach it… Though I’ve submitted to this fate, it’s only to the extent of using Matan without resistance. If I prepare a place to ensure this gun disappears when I use the last Matan, it won’t be troublesome if things remain unchanged. Isn’t that so?”

Had Francis already steeled himself up to this point? Perhaps he was trying to gauge Zamiel’s reaction to that possibility.

Ha Leeha could feel the subtle provocation in his tone, noticing the tremble in his voice.

However, Zamiel only responded with a slight chuckle.

“Half right and half wrong. First, let’s address what’s wrong. I am satisfied with you, Francis. Haven’t I mentioned that there’s never been a Matan’s Shooter like you before?”

“Satisfied? Do you think I can’t eliminate Matan’s Shooter’s gun?”

“That wasn’t included in our contract. The last place you fire Matan, irrespective of how odd the location may be, should be a place where it can undoubtedly be touched by human hands. That much is sufficient for me. I am satisfied with that.”

“Ugh—then what was the correct part—”

“But… it would be problematic if it does not become the handover of Matan’s Shooter.”

Zamiel’s eyes gleamed.

The entity attached to Matan’s Shooter’s gun gazed unwaveringly at Francis. Though Francis hesitated momentarily, Ha Leeha could sense its intent.

=”It’s been too long… The time for the handover… has already passed.”=

The entity was not addressing Francis directly; it was speaking to Ha Leeha, who had entered Francis’ body.

=”It must change hands as soon as possible. As soon as possible.”=

“Kyle!”

With that, Ha Leeha lost consciousness in a flash of light.

“Whaaa!”

“Ha Leeha-nim!”

Blaugrunn shot to his feet and embraced Ha Leeha, who instinctively hugged the young boy back. Even experiencing it twice, waking as if from a nightmare didn’t make it any easier to adapt.

‘I knew it. I knew it right from the start! As expected—Zamiel is a being that transcends time and space!’

It wasn’t that Francis was hiding anything. No, it might be accurate to say Francis did try to hide it. However, the moment Zamiel saw Ha Leeha entering Francis’ memory, he perceived the world anew.

“He was just watching. He let Francis ramble on just to deliver that final word.”

Should it be seen as Zamiel’s advice? Or perhaps a warning?

A word unconsciously escaped Ha Leeha as he searched for the most fitting term.

“Ooommph…”

“What?”

Zamiel was an entity attached to the gun used by Matan’s Shooter. In other words, he could ascertain his current position. If, under those circumstances, he was watching Ha Leeha’s state across time and space?

Could he not divulge his current location?

‘That’s why he remained silent. He listened to Francis until the conversation was sufficient before intervening. If he intended to stop it, he would have interfered immediately when the talk began.’

But Zamiel didn’t. Because the message Francis was trying to convey coincided with Zamiel’s own intentions.

(To be continued…)
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I am at the eastern end of the new continent.

Come. And take me.

—

“It is drawing people in.”

“What? What do you mean?”

“It’s clear that the current 《Matan’s Shooter》 isn’t typical. Kaztor was involved, and there are Elizabeth and Brown too—so it’s drawing people in to change the generation.”

“One word at a time! I can’t keep up!”

Could Kyle not be controlled at will?

Perhaps the penalties were not working properly.

‘Yes. It was strange from the beginning. How could Elizabeth use the gun exclusive to Matan’s Shooter? That gun is only for Matan’s Shooter to use…’

It was already revealed in Max Hescok’s journal.

The points that seemed strange indeed were actually behaving strangely.

“Blaugrunn, we need― to go… to the new continent…”

“Now? Shall I prepare teleportation?”

“That― umm…”

Ha Leeha gritted his teeth.

Teleporting to the polluted World Tree’s forest immediately, and then heading east to the new continent?

‘Kaztor, not to mention Chiyou and Bluebeard, might be in unknown circumstances. Moreover, it’s confirmed that Kaztor has joined hands with Bluebeard.’

That’s why he felt the urgency, but that also raised cautious thoughts.

The second class change was completed.


Currently, Leeha was a 〈White Reaper〉.

Kidd and Luger might have also completed the second class change, even though Leeha did not know their titles yet.

What about Ram Hwajung?

She was a 〈White Snow〉.

With skills different from before, she might be able to handle them.

‘But I still…’

He had no skills.

Though he had penetrating eyes and breath that blended in, those were merely auxiliary.

A perfect shot.

That was what Ha Leeha desired.

“I need to quickly learn 〈White Reaper〉.”

Panrind, the chairman of the tribal council, heard Ha Leeha muttering. He nodded quietly.

“There’s something I need to tell you in relation to that.”

“Yes?”

“The <White Reaper> skill that the White Reaper can use… it is said that it requires certain weather conditions.”

“Oh, ah. Yes, that’s correct.”

He saw it in Francis’s memories.

Without the specific gun used by Matan’s Shooter, this was the only type of bullet that could be used, and even then, the weather conditions had to align perfectly.

“Fortunately, we know how. Maybe because we know the method, it was passed on to us… perhaps as a secret technique.”

The chairman pulled something out from his pocket.


It was a snowball the size of a fist. He shook it, and inside the transparent glass, model snow began to fall slowly.

“That’s…”

“It’s a simple offering for invoking snowfall. If you, as the White Reaper, know how to use this, you’ll become the true White Reaper. This must be what he wanted.”

“Y, yes. Probably… I think, that’s why Francis left such memories—”

“Francis?!”

The chairman’s eyes widened.

“Oh, I didn’t tell you. I’ve been… experiencing his memories. Naturally, I heard his name too.”

“Oh, oh!”

“My goodness—how can this be—”

“W, what is his name?”

The Panrind elders and Aner began to murmur. Their most important concern might have been this very fact.

Leeha blamed himself for his lack of delicacy and told them their hero’s name.

“Francis Pegamanabo. He was a sniper called Francis.”

『Panrind Tribe: Truth』

Quest completed.

Swoosh…

A hologram window appeared before Leeha’s eyes.

* * *

『Panrind Tribe: Wish』

Description: “Francis Pegamanabo. Francis Pegamanabo. We will never forget that name. Though we cannot know his full story, even if we fall under a curse that prevents us from remembering his name, we will never forget it… even if we have to erect a statue of the great man. However, as newly self-sufficient people… we have a request. If Ha Leeha finds a way for us, we will give you the 〈Legendary Snowball〉, and our people will dedicate everything to you.”


The impoverished Panrind Tribe desires financial aid to sustain their life after becoming self-sufficient.

Content: Support the Panrind Tribe with over 20,000 gold.

Reward: 〈Legendary Snowball〉

Do you accept?

“Wow…”

Leeha inadvertently let out a peculiar exclamation. To avoid uttering a curse, he had to make some sound.

“We, we know it’s shameless of us. We are embarrassed to ask this from someone who secured our rights and provided a foundation for us to live proudly, but…”

The chairman lowered his head.

Leeha suddenly remembered a phrase from Francis’s book.

‘Those who have grown accustomed to groveling… have a habit that cannot be cured for old NPCs.’

To put it more bluntly, it was like saving someone from drowning only for them to demand your possessions.

However, from another perspective, it was also true that they seemed endlessly pitiful.

Francis’s intention to foster a sense of independence in them and his feelings of empathy were somewhat understandable.

‘But 20,000 gold? Are you kidding me? That’s insane! Middle Earth’s gold exchange rate—though it has dropped a bit recently—is still over 90,000 won per gold! It could easily be seen as 100,000 won!’

There was a period when gold, which had once gone over 120,000 won, fell back to about 80,000 won.

However, Middle Earth was exceedingly adept at ‘subtly’ reclaiming currency and always managed to adjust the in-game money supply so that 1 gold had a value comparable to 100 USD.

But 20,000 gold?

‘If you convert that based on 100,000 won per gold, that’s 2 billion won, you crazy bastards! Hey, this is insane—damn it—’

There were no failure conditions for this quest, no penalties for failing. It was impossible to fail.

This couldn’t even be considered a quest.

It was more like they were offering money in exchange for items, an attempt by Middle Earth to reclaim its gold through a pseudo-quest.

‘Gaza City barely has any surplus funds aside from its operational costs. Even with partial revenue from Castle Dale, gathering 20,000 gold is out of the question. What, am I supposed to collect 2 billion won? At this rate, I might as well quit the game. When would I ever gather… gather? Why should I gather this money?’

Ha Leeha’s expression changed from worry to resolve. Why should he collect this money just to give it to them?

“Hehehe… Chairman?”

“Yes, yes? Ha Leeha-ssi.”

“Of course, I’d like to help. If I help you, it will be much faster, easier, and simpler. It will be enough to set up a statue, and the Panrind folks who are currently hiding could open their own stores and stand proud without needing to transform! Isn’t it much better if they can become self-sufficient by running their own businesses? Of course, that would be ideal.”

“Yes, indeed! So if Ha Leeha-ssi could assist a bit—”

“But would that really be… self-sufficiency?”

“What?”

The Chairman and the other elder NPCs of the council tilted their heads in confusion.

The relatively young Aner looked embarrassed and didn’t meet Ha Leeha’s eyes.

‘Well, at least the younger generation is more aware.’

Regardless, he had to give them money somehow.

However, Ha Leeha was reluctant to spend his own hard-earned money, and he didn’t have enough spare funds at the moment either.

So what were his options?

“True independence means… accumulating money little by little and starting from scratch.”

“True, that’s absolutely right, but considering our current situation—”

“I will help you with that.”

“… What? How…?”

“I will help you pave the way to gather funds. Whether you gather 20,000 gold or 30,000 gold, I can’t say. You might even be able to gather 100,000 or 1 million gold with your capabilities.”

“Is there such a way?”

“Yes, there is.”

The elderly NPCs, who had been completely drawn into Ha Leeha’s pace, stared at him with sparkling eyes.

Ha Leeha quietly recited a skill name.

‘〈Bargaining〉’

Bargaining skill activated.

Persuasion probability increased by 55%.

Skill 〈Expert Bargaining (Lv.7)〉.

Starting from the initial 20%, it increased 9 percentage points per skill level (1-9) in the novice grade, another 9 points in the intermediate grade (1-9), and 7 points in the expert grade (1-7), totaling up to 45%.

Additionally, an extra 5% cumulative point was added for each grade the skill advanced from novice onwards, resulting in a current total of 55% persuasion probability.

“You’ve heard the news that the Giants have started developing new resource mines in the north, haven’t you?”

“Of course. Several veins have already been found—”

“I have the rights to share those profits… I’ll give you a part. Why not collaborate with the Giants and work together? Since you can now live proudly in Shazrashian, it’s a good opportunity to start with them in collaboration, isn’t it?”

The 『Northern Continent Resource Mine Development Profit Sharing Rights』 achievement had granted Ha Leeha 10% shares.

That authority was granted solely as the proxy of Shimo, not as a representative of the Panrind race!

Shimo would have given everything to the Panrind race if he were present. But where was he now?

Considering Shimo’s inability to communicate with the Panrind race?

‘It means I can do as I please to some extent. Hehe. After all, I received it, so I can decide how to use it.’

This was why Ha Leeha could act confidently.

“Col…laboration…”

The Chairman mumbled, echoing Ha Leeha’s words.

However, if he was at the level of the Chairman, his intelligence wasn’t low. He was probably calculating the gains and losses in his mind.

“I’ll give you 3%.”

“Th-three percent? That’s too little for our people to stand on our own—”

“I don’t have many shares myself. Naturally, as the ‘White Reaper’, I don’t want to do business with my beloved Panrind friends. If you’re not satisfied with 3%, I can give you 5%.”

“Fi-five percen—”

“But!”

Ha Leeha always intended to give around 5% from the beginning.

By motivating their labor willingness and collaborating with the Giants, resource development would accelerate.

In the end, who would benefit?

Ha Leeha himself, who held the remaining 5% shares.

Yet, there was another reason why he engaged in this ‘push-and-pull’ strategy from the start.

“The condition is that you give me the 〈Legendary Snowball〉 right now.”

As Ha Leeha finished speaking, the Chairman NPC glanced at the other elderly NPCs.

All the council elders rolled their eyes, realizing there was no other viable option.

Five percent of the profits from forever-developed resources versus a one-time support of 20,000 gold.

They weren’t fools.

“We sincerely thank you for saving our people once again…”

Even if they seemed ready to give everything, perfection never existed in Middle Earth.

Ha Leeha realized this once again as he received the 〈Legendary Snowball〉 handed to him by the Chairman NPC.

Ba-bam—! With the sound of alert fanfare, a white light emanated from Ha Leeha’s body.

You have leveled up.

『Panrind Race: Wish』

Quest completed.
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“Is the condition to shoot different depending on the weather?”

Ha Leeha relentlessly pondered over “White Reaper”.

“Or was it that the absence of firearms imposes a limitation? I have no idea. Should I learn it quickly to find out?”

As Ha Leeha recalled Francis’ words, he also thought backward to the principles of Matan’s original concept.

If the <White Reaper> skill was based on snow, were the others related to rain, fog, or other weather conditions?

‘No way. That doesn’t seem right. It seems more likely that it’s about the presence of firearms. If it’s not the original, it can’t exert 100% of its abilities, so it’s probably a form of amplification using some medium—perhaps snow was the most suitable for this?’

Snow and ice.

<White Reaper> couldn’t be considered a ‘bullet’ no matter how much he thought about it.

To put it simply, it was more akin to a laser. Could Matan mean ‘laser’ then?

Or are there various types of Matan, with <White Reaper> being just one that takes the form of a laser?

‘A laser that can hit all desired targets? Then snow acts as a reflector? This is giving me a headache!’

As Ha Leeha pulled at his hair, Blaugrunn, who was walking alongside him, spoke up.

“What are you thinking about?”

“Matan. Ah, you haven’t seen it, Blaugrunn? <White Reaper>”

“I heard about it from Ha Leeha-nim, but it’s really hard to believe.”

“Well, that’s true. I wouldn’t believe it either if I hadn’t seen it myself.”

Watching Blaugrunn speak nonchalantly, Ha Leeha also felt slightly dejected.

How could anyone believe it? It would be hard without seeing it firsthand.

However, it was fortunate that there was something else to show other than “White Reaper.”

Besides, he had been repeatedly using it for his ‘rank up’ as well.


To level up a skill, it had to be used continuously with every cooldown.

“Blaugrunn, could you look at me for a moment? <Melding Breath>.”

“What? Why—oh?”

Blaugrunn’s eyes widened.

“Oh! Oh, oh, oh! Ha Leeha-nim?!”

A moment later, Blaugrunn’s eyes grew so wide they seemed ready to pop out.

The green-haired boy, panicking uncharacteristically for a dragon, rubbed his eyes.

“<Mana Detect>, <Detect>!”

Shwaaah…!

Even after using detection magic, Ha Leeha remained invisible, causing Blaugrunn to panic even more and shout.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Ha Leeha-nim?! … Even messenger magic doesn’t work—where did you suddenly go?!”

Blaugrunn shouted.

Seeing his astonished face, Ha Leeha wanted to laugh.

But as he was always surprised himself whenever using this skill, he had no right to tease.

The breath melds with nature.

All sounds are muted.

All chats, including whispers, are prohibited.

‘Wait, I can’t hear sounds either? What the heck is this?’

Ha Leeha could see Blaugrunn mouthing words.

He could also see turquoise mana particles gathering and dispersing around Blaugrunn’s body. But that was all.


Ha Leeha was most surprised by the fact that he could not even hear his own footsteps.

Not even the crunching sound of stepping on snow was audible.

—Blaugrunn?

Whisper also doesn’t work.

‘Ahh! Ahh!’

No sound came out when he tried to yell. It was as if only his thoughts floated in the void.

When he looked down, he saw his footprints in the snow.

Blaugrunn soon noticed them and began pointing in Ha Leeha’s direction.

‘What?’

Suddenly, Ha Leeha realized a new fact.

Mute.

No wonder he couldn’t hear anything; the skill description had mentioned muting.

Until now, he had only thought it meant that his noise wouldn’t escape to the outside.

‘Diss, ‘Skill Release’!’

Shooaak—!

“Ha Leeha-nim! What happened?!”

“I’m the one who wants to know! What is this? Mute meant this? Ah, now that I think about it…”

Ha Leeha suddenly remembered the time Shimo was sniping.

Just before battling the giants, when he had hidden, neither Blaugrunn nor Ha Leeha could get any response from Shimo.

‘It wasn’t because he was perfecting his stealth…’


Nothing could be heard.

Became one with nature.

Now Ha Leeha fully understood the meaning of the skill.

It was a skill that completely isolated him from the outside, allowing his consciousness to focus solely on ‘him’.

‘This skill has significant weaknesses, too. Information gleaned from sounds can’t be ignored, especially since snipers can’t just raise their heads or move freely. But even so…’

Ha Leeha began to grasp when and how to use this skill.

This skill shouldn’t be used right in front of the enemy.

If he couldn’t hear the enemy’s sounds?

Or couldn’t discern what noise his movements made and whether the enemy heard it or not?

‘My life could be at risk. I’m not immune to general attacks either.’

So, when should this skill be used?

From a perfect sniping point, when he already spotted the enemy.

And when the enemy might also have noticed his presence.

‘This skill can ignore the enemy’s long-range counter skills while… enhancing my sniping concentration to its highest level.’

That was the moment to use it.

A skill that allowed one to erase all intrusive thoughts right before firing the final shot.

“If I hadn’t tried it out in advance, it could have been a disaster.”

“I was even more surprised! You should have told me that—… But how did you manage it? Huh? It’s similar to how those whining humans transform, right? What’s the principle behind it?”

“I-I’ll explain it later! Shimo! I even completed the ‘Wishes’ of the Panrind people!”

Ha Leeha pushed away the tenacious Blaugrunn and entered the ruin where Shimo was.

* * *

Shimo had an expression that showed he didn’t understand at all.

Shimo had also read the book Ha Leeha had seen. However, he mentioned he witnessed no changes when he read it.

In other words, Shimo was not qualified to see it.

Perhaps it was just a game setting.

That was why Shimo was deeply bewildered. The surprising story about ‘Francis’ was enough, but Ha Leeha also pulled out another item.

Shimo glanced back and forth between the 〈Legendary Snowball〉 Ha Leeha presented and Ha Leeha’s face.

『… You’ve already got this…』

“Yes. Just as you mentioned, by exploring the books the Panrind people had, I found the conditions. 〈White Reaper〉 can only be used when the weather conditions are met. Luckily, the Panrind people have the ability to meet those weather conditions, and the current chairperson of the elders gave this to me.”

『T-That… You were supposed to go to the altar for the weather control ritual… and bring back the unique orb our people possess. That was the task I intended to give you.』

“What? Ah!”

Ha Leeha could understand why Shimo stuttered in such a fluster.

To sum it up, the pre-quest Shimo wanted was merely for 『Panrind People: Truth』.

After clearing that quest, it would then lead to 『Panrind People: Wish』, and upon returning to Shimo, he would receive the quest 『White Reaper: Weather Ritual—3』.

‘And the condition for the Weather Ritual quest is placing the Snowball at the altar. To place the Snowball, I needed to fulfill the Wish quest, which meant I had to forcibly invest money and time.’

Despite being renowned for killing Toons, ruling Gaza City, and now as a giant slayer, paying 20,000 gold in one go was still difficult for Ha Leeha.

Not even fifty people in all of Middle Earth had such immediate financial capability.

The people Ha Leeha could think of were Ram Hwayeon, who was wealthy in reality, Alexander, the mysterious number one ranker, and Peiwu supported by the Hwangryong Guild.

Most others would have either the funds but not the skill to make it this far.

Even if they had the skill, they would still need to spend time earning money. However, Ha Leeha had already cleared it ‘long ago.’

So what about the Weather Ritual—3 quest?

『C-Cough. Then, you must find the cleanest snow with that item.』

Shimo hastily opened his mouth. At that moment, a hologram window appeared before Ha Leeha’s eyes.

『White Reaper: Master of Snow and Ice—4』

Description: “To create snow, you need to meet those who govern and love the snow. We used to hold a weather ritual for those beings existing in great nature. As someone akin to our people now, I hope you meet them in the name of the 〈White Reaper〉.”

The White Reaper, Shimo wanted to pass on his aides. Pass his test to receive them.

Content: Seek pure snow in the undeveloped northern region of Shazrashian and hold a weather ritual.

Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: If the weather ritual is held in impure snow.

Upon Failure: Destroy 〈Legendary Snowball〉.

Do you accept?

Ha Leeha smiled in satisfaction, seeing the number at the end of the quest.

『You need to find snow so pure that not even animals or monsters would leave their footprints there. Such places have beings who govern snow and ice, existing within this world. The moment you place the Snowball there, you will naturally understand.』

Shimo spoke to Ha Leeha.

However, Ha Leeha couldn’t completely focus on his words.

『But, be cautious. Contaminated snow will dirty the Snowball… Although we could obtain another Snowball from our people—it’s not an easy task, as you well know.』

Only one thing caught Ha Leeha’s eyes.

The hidden reward.

‘Judging by the quest content, the skill to be obtained will probably be snow-making—similar to Ram Hwajung’s Blizzard but with much less or almost no destructive power. So, considering the structure of quests with hidden rewards… there is only one thing left.’

After clearing this quest, what would appear next?

‘〈White Reaper〉.’

Ha Leeha meticulously examined the quest window. Only then did Shimo’s scattered voice reach his ears.

“Huh? Yes?”

『… Did you understand what I said?』

“Of course!”

Ha Leeha looked at Blaugrunn.

Blaugrunn nodded beside him—meaning he understood and would explain later!

Thanks to his partner, now a perfect match with just a look, Ha Leeha did not incur the bad graces of the NPC mentor for his second job advancement.

『Getting close to them won’t be easy. But I believe you can do it.』

“Hmm… I understand.”

This time, it didn’t seem related to the Panrind people.

The rulers of snow and ice. Ha Leeha immediately thought of a Silver Dragon.

‘That would be highly advantageous for me.’

There weren’t many beings Shimo would use honorifics for, and the master of snow and ice would be a dragon.

“By ‘northern’, you mean the area to the north of here—”

『Hmm. It would be hard to find pure snow in the existing lands. Beyond the place where the descendants of Craba have just started developing. Surely, pure snow still exists there.』

“—Got it. I’ll be on my way then.”

Dragons that govern snow and ice exist not only among metals but also within the chromatic dragon clans.

Worrying that Shimo might be referring to a white dragon, which could be a hassle, Ha Leeha began walking towards the northern part of the ruins.

* * *

“Wow, they’ve already… laid down the rails? We really need to abandon the prejudice that giants are simple-minded.”

“They are just basic transportation tools using wheels and grooves. Ha Leeha, are you surprised by something like that?”

“No, it’s amazing that they laid down such lengthy tracks in just a few days!”

Ha Leeha pointed ahead while looking at Blaugrunn, who chided him.

Just beyond the ruins where Shimo was, there was a warp gate.

This warp gate was connected not only to the capital of Shazrashian but also to various industrial cities scattered across Shazrashian.

But was creating a warp gate the end of the work?

What about transporting materials mined from the nearby mines and veins?
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“I thought they’d just pick it up and move it… Well, no matter how strong a giant is, they can’t be that reckless.”

Though not fully automated, the mana-utilized railway was already laid over a long distance.

Naturally, around the railway and warp gate, camps had sprouted due to groups mining ore, almost turning the place into a small town.

“There are quite a few people here who seem comfortably around level 200… no, 250.”

“What?”

“Oh, I thought everyone had moved to the new continent.”

The number of NPCs and users here indicated just how eagerly the Shazrashian Federation sought this place, and it also showed how many players wanted to explore the newly opened area, despite being able to go to the “Sacred Alliance”.

While Ha Leeha walked, marveling at the surroundings, Blaugrunn also scanned the area meticulously.

“The greed for development of humans… tsk-tsk.”

However, his expression was a bit different from Ha Leeha’s.

Ha Leeha chuckled at the sight of the tongue-clicking elder dragon.

“While dragons also collect lots of things… What are you talking about? Blaugrunn, your lair is no joke.”

“Wh-what are you talking about! We are not driven by personal greed, but purely due to the supernatural powers imbued in those substances—and our curiosity about them—”

“Yes, yes, I understand, bronze Dragon-nim. So that’s why you have so much ‘gold’ piled up? Were you really curious about the ‘supernatural powers’ of gold?”

“… Gold… that, as a material for magic…”

Seeing his face turning bright red, Ha Leeha burst into laughter.

Blaugrunn stood with his mouth agape, unable to take a step, just staring at Ha Leeha as if his very core had been pierced.

“Kuh, at times like this, an achievement like 『Shut a Dragon’s Mouth with Words』 would really fit.”

As Ha Leeha muttered while walking, Blaugrunn hastily caught up, unwilling to lose.

The sudden banter drew the curiosity of nearby giants, who soon focused on Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn.


Initially, it was mere curiosity about the noisy exchange.

However, as soon as they saw the human’s face, their expressions changed.

“Ha, ha, ha—”

“Ha Leeha! It’s Ha Leeha───!”

“Damn it, pack up! Pack up quickly!”

“Emergency! Emergency! Call the security team, call the security team!”

“Run, you bastards! If we stay here, we’re all done for!”

The atmosphere suddenly turned into a battlefield.

Giants who were consulting maps to find veins, pushing carts, or selling potions and buff scrolls to others—everyone affiliated with the Shazrashian nation dispersed chaotically, centered around Ha Leeha.

“… Huh?”

Blaugrunn sighed.

“It would be weird if your face wasn’t well known. You did stir up quite a mess in the capital.”

The commotion mostly involved NPCs, while the players gazed at Ha Leeha with awe.

Naturally, no security team was dispatched to arrest Ha Leeha. He hadn’t broken any rules of Middle Earth.

“Hm… I kind of like this feeling. Maybe this is how Blaugrunn feels when he sees humans. Grr! I’ll eat you all!”

“Please don’t lower me to your level, Ha Leeha.”

“What?! You want to be scolded?”

As the bustling streets cleared, leaving them empty and clean, Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn walked on, joking even more freely.

Leaving the newly forming village behind, they headed north.

The railway leading to the warp gate had gaps where temporary rest stops had been set up as spots for exchanging carts.


“It’s impressive how swiftly it has stretched out within a few days… but it’s not necessarily a good thing for me.”

The initial admiration faded quickly.

He began to worry. With giants’ presence already so widespread, how far would he need to go to find undeveloped areas?

Ha Leeha needed to find the “Pure Snow” untouched by development.

The noises of pickaxes and spells being cast to extract ore from a distant vein, and the wizardry echoing from a nearby mountain midpoint slowly faded as they walked on for hours.

Even Blaugrunn began to notice the surrounding quietness.

“It seems they haven’t reached this far yet.”

“Hmm, though saying ‘this far’ implies we have already walked quite a distance.”

Ha Leeha glanced back.

It had been quite a while since the rail was last visible, and the noise from nearby mountains was also dying down.

“But what did they mean by ‘one who controls ice and snow’? Blaugrunn-ssi, don’t you think there’s a Silver Dragon living nearby?”

“As far as I know, no.”

“Then maybe a white dragon.”

“White? Hmm. I don’t think there’s a lair around here. And considering what the human soul said earlier, it meant they did such things in the past in ‘somewhere else not here’, right?”

“… Right.”

“Then it might not have much to do with a dragon.”

Ha Leeha nodded, considering Blaugrunn’s words. Shimo probably never ventured up here in the past.

At that time, it was still an undeveloped area, not yet unified by the Shazrashian Federation, a region where Shimo would have offered prayers.

‘Wait a minute. In that case, not a dragon’s lair but… something that could emerge in such a way—Ah?! Come to think of it, the phrase itself—’

Criiiiiiiiiiiiiiii!


“Ugh!?”

“Hm?”

The enormous noise from somewhere made both Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn frown.

They quickly identified the source.

“… Seems like someone did come this far.”

“Huh, what is that now…”

Ahead, at the base of the mountain range, they saw a group of giants gathered closely together.

Perhaps because they were equipped for mining rather than combat, they struggled against the giant bird that had just screeched.

“It looks like a type of condor… it’s huge.”

“Right? It’s even bigger than most harpies. Almost griffon-sized, isn’t it?”

Its size rivaled that of the monsters he saw while searching for Elizabeth and Brown’s dwelling.

Even with just one bird, the giants were having a hard time.

“Should we step in?”

No new proper characters have been introduced or mentioned.

“Well… Since I’m already doing it, let me give it a try.”

“Ha Leeha?”

“There’s something I want to test.”

Ha Leeha’s hands moved like lightning. In no time, the magazine was loaded into the Black Bass and a bullet was chambered.

Even Blaugrunn, who had seen such a scene thousands of times, was momentarily surprised by the speed.

“If it’s a test…”

“My eyes.”

Ha Leeha lifted the Black Bass.

As he took a standing firing position and aimed at the unknown monster, his passive skill was activated.

* * *

He felt an intense heat rush to his eyes, a sensation that was slightly unpleasant. However, that feeling vanished in an instant.

─────────────……!

In a flash, Ha Leeha’s eyes entered the state of 〈Distorted Vision〉, rather than his regular sight.

‘Oh, so this is what it does?’

It wasn’t a vague concept like reading the wind.

As Ha Leeha aimed at what appeared to be a giant bird monster, a type of condor, new elements came into his ‘view’ which he hadn’t seen before.

“Heh… I see the 〈lines〉…”

“Pardon?”

“Ah, I see. Now I understand why he calls it ‘reading the wind’.”

It was essentially a set of guidelines.

The various ‘lines’ traced in the air indicated the actual strength and direction of the wind.

‘This is cheating… It’s definitely cheating.’

What amazed Ha Leeha even more was that it wasn’t just about reading the wind.

He moved the Black Bass’s muzzle here and there, away from the bird monster.

Blaugrunn was pestering him, asking if he planned to kill all the giants over there, but testing this was more important to Ha Leeha at the moment.

‘A thin line extending about 100 meters from the muzzle, different in color from other lines… Could it be…?’

Was it indicating the bullet’s trajectory?

Not only could he read the wind, but it could also show how the bullet would move, influenced by the wind?

‘Damn, with this, even an elementary school kid could snipe! Of course — the skill level is low and the rating is low, so the line is faint and the range short, but still…’

While the skill level and rating were low, making the 〈Predicted Trajectory〉 only around 100 meters, it was still incredibly useful.

In other words, if he were shooting at a target within 100 meters, it would be almost impossible for Ha Leeha to miss.

“The bird monster is approaching humans. If you don’t shoot, I will—”

BOOM────────……!

Only Ha Leeha could see the bullet’s path.

‘Hmm, it does move. It’s fascinating to see the trajectory perfectly, unlike a tracer.’

It was affected by the wind speed and direction.

But for Ha Leeha, who was reading the surrounding wind, and thanks to the 『Piercing the Wind』 achievement that moderately reduced the impact of wind speed and direction, hitting the target wasn’t difficult.

“… You’re a really good shot.”

Blaugrunn grumbled but was nonetheless impressed by Ha Leeha’s extraordinary skill.

“Huh?”

“What is it?”

“Oh, right. It seems this is indeed a newly opened area.”

“Pardon?”

Ba-bam―!

Just from shooting down a bird, an achievement window appeared before Ha Leeha’s eyes.

〈Achievement: New Species Discovered! ― Condor Family (A-)〉

Congratulations!

You have discovered and hunted a new monster species presumed to belong to the condor family in the northern continent of the Lope. This newly observed avian species, which differs from the condors found in Minis’ Desert Canyon or Fibiel’s Rocky Mountains, has sparked the interest of Shazrashian biologists who are now flocking to this region.

Evolved to be significantly larger than their southern counterparts due to the cold climate, these creatures not only have lightweight bodies for adept flight but also possess enhanced abilities to sense the wind.

In honor of the first discoverer—yourself—the Shazrashian biologists have named this condor species the 〈Shazra-Leeha Condor〉.

Reward: Agility +16, stamina +16, ice Attribute Resistance +10%.

(This is an achievement without the Hall of Fame.)

“A new species of monster… but that name is ridiculous!?”

It was Ha Leeha’s first achievement related to monsters.

Considering that there had been new area discovery achievements every time he explored new regions, it was not unusual to have monster discovery achievements as well.

The distinct feature was that the discoverer’s nickname cleverly merged with the monster’s name!

“What’s wrong with the name?”

“It sounds like ‘Shazra-Leeha Condor’! And look at that—it’s a type of condor—”

A condor, or more commonly, a vulture.

Ha Leeha, still without a hat, felt the cool breeze sweep over his bare head as he touched it.

From a distance, he saw Giants bowing in gratitude. Ha Leeha waved his hand as he approached.

It wasn’t to receive their thanks.

“Can I have the carcass?”

“Heh heh, alright, alright. Blaugrunn, you might want to study it too as a keepsake.”

The loot from a new monster was indispensable.

‘Wow, but the fact that there were no achievements during the New Continent exploration… That implies someone caught those monsters before me?’

A realization dawned on him.

Even when he pursued Elizabeth and fought the monster ‘Ankylosaurus’, only the ‘One Shot’ achievement popped up, not a discovery achievement.

‘Which means… they were all just greedy.’

After the New Continent’s navigation ended, why did Alexander, lee Jiwon, and Fernand vanish so quickly?

To catch new monsters faster than anyone else.

To set foot in new areas before anyone else.

That’s how they could become overwhelmingly powerful in Middle Earth.
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〈The Heroic Wing Feather of the Condor that Withstands the Cold Wind〉

**Description:** A wing feather that absorbs the fierce northern winds. It can be obtained from the newly discovered condor—henceforth called Shazra-Leeha Condor.

〈Claw Resembling the Hand of a Hero〉

**Description:** A claw extracted from the foot of a Shazra-Leeha Condor, which belongs to the Condor family. Each claw is as large as the hand of a giant adult man and is sharpened to the point where it can be used as a rake.

“Hero-grade material items!? Plus, two wing feathers and three claws… It must be generous because of its huge size.”

The fact that hero-grade items appeared meant that the monster’s level was quite high.

Even when hunting Harpies at levels 180-200, only rare items were obtained, yet here, hero-grade items were appearing.

“Although making a hero item would require a lot of materials… Just grinding here could yield items on par with the pre-transformation Black Bass. Incredible.”

A good reward implied something about the levels and stats of the monsters.

Ha Leeha thought that the level of the monsters here could exceed that of most in the western part of the New Continent.

“How much can be killed in one strike, really?”

Despite that, seeing that something could be killed by him in one strike meant his attack power was unusually strong compared to other users.

Even Ha Leeha could not accurately gauge the general attack power level of other users, so each attack was surprising.

“Thank you very much.”

“If it weren’t for you, Ha Leeha-nim, we would have…”

“But what kind of monster is this? Hearing its cry made my magic stop dead.”

The Giants muttered as they looked at the monster’s corpse.

Meanwhile, they couldn’t help but glance at Ha Leeha, who had taken down the newly appeared monster in one blow.

To the Giant NPCs, Ha Leeha was like the Grim Reaper.

“Oh, does it freeze magic!? It seems to have the ability to freeze mana with its cry!”


“Well.”

Blaugrunn’s eyes twinkled as he listened to the Giants’ opinions, but Ha Leeha showed little interest.

“If these guys weren’t here, I would have achieved a local discovery accomplishment. Tsk.”

Just as the Giants were sneaking glances at Ha Leeha, he was starting to take more interest in them, though most of it was close to resentment.

“Why did you all come here? There are many other unoccupied mountains. Didn’t you find any mineral veins?”

“Th-that is…”

Nearly twenty Giants, each several heads taller than Ha Leeha, gathered and looked uneasy.

Ha Leeha heaved a deep sigh and fiddled with the magazine of Black Bass.

As the metallic sound of clicking echoed, their eyes widened in awe.

“Because of the minerals! The minerals!”

“I mean, there are still many undeveloped mountains behind here, so why come all the way here?”

The distance between the last mining site and here was quite considerable.

Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn had found them in a place they believed was devoid of people.

Why had they come all the way here?

“Is there some kind of special mineral?”

Blaugrunn caught on and asked in a solemn voice.

Seeing the Giants nod in agreement with Blaugrunn, Ha Leeha understood their situation better.

“It’s… a special mineral. The mineral reaction here is definitely different from other places. Of course, it doesn’t seem to be gold or silver…”

One of the Giants stepped forward with a device that looked crude to Ha Leeha, like a makeshift radar.

“It may only be rare and hold little value. But for us small-scale operators, we need to take such gambles instead of looking for common iron or copper veins…”


Ha Leeha finally understood their plight.

Unlike other groups, this one had fewer members because they were taking a dangerous gamble for greater profit.

“Hmm, gambling… you don’t know what’s actually inside yet, and if that—er, condor monster appears, it’s dangerous. Right?”

“…Yes.”

The giant, who seemed to be their leader, nodded.

Besides the miners, there were combat-type NPCs as well, but as they’d mentioned earlier, if a mana-freezing pulse was released, it would be hard to handle the Shazra, henceforth Condor, at a general level.

So then?

“What if we help?”

“What?”

“What if we protect you until you find the vein?”

“Protection… you mean?”

The Giants murmured, not fully understanding.

“Yes. We will guard you, even if the Condor appears. What can you give us in return?”

“Ha Leeha-nim! But we’re in a hurry—”

“Right. So I’ll be leaving.”

“—Here— What?”

“Blaugrunn will stay. He’s interested in the monsters anyway. He can take the corpses, and I’ll keep the dropped items. Deal?”

The Giants would share some rights if they found rare minerals.

Ha Leeha would continuously loot the material items from the Shazra, henceforth Condor, through Blaugrunn.

Even if the monsters were at the level of the western part of the New Continent, they would not stand a chance against Blaugrunn.


Moreover, as this was not a teleport-restricted area, Ha Leeha could always join Blaugrunn using the Partner skill.

“Two more are already flying over. What will you do? If you say you can handle it, we’ll just leave.”

Ha Leeha pointed to the mountain ridge.

Even the Giants could deduce that the large dots dotted in the sky were monsters similar to the Condor.

They had struggled with just one; how could they handle two?

This proposal from the beginning was one they couldn’t refuse.

“We’ll give it to you. How much do you need?”

“You all need to make a living, so I don’t need too much… After all, the minerals won’t be coming out immediately. Just promise me this. If I need those minerals later, sell them to me at cost price.”

“Well, if it’s at cost price—”

“Yes, but that doesn’t mean I’ll take 100% of what you find. How much could I possibly need? I’m just a single individual, right? Ah, our agreement is to protect you until you penetrate the lode. Once you make it there safely, you’ll be able to avoid most of Condor’s attacks. Deal?”

From the standpoint of a single individual, it would be impossible to handle 100% of the supply.

If he were talking as the lord of Gaza City, it would be different… but Ha Leeha didn’t explain that far.

“Understood…”

Ha Leeha sensed the reluctance in the nod of the Giant, who wore an expression as if he had bitten into something bitter.

It had never been easy talking even to NPCs from Fibiel or Minis.

‘But with the Giants…’

For some reason, his attitude became unusually tough.

Ha Leeha realized once again that choosing a good representative for a race was vital.

To him, the Giants would always remind him of Igor and the Czar Guild. The grudge he held from being wronged by them so many times made him feel justified in getting payback.

“Then, Blaugrunn, handle it. Keep in touch.”

“Understood.”

After parting ways with them, Ha Leeha headed north again.

If they were the last Giants to reach the northernmost point, the areas beyond would now all be unexplored.

If the same could be said for the monsters as well?

‘Kreuh! Time to sweep up those achievements!’

With a quest to find the Pure Snow in hand, Ha Leeha headed north with a mindset far from pure.

In less than four hours, he had acquired five new achievements.

All of them were A-grade.

* * *

“Karrarrrrk—!”

『Myong!』

“What? There was another one!?”

Boom────────…!

Ha Leeha quickly pulled the bolt and fired.

While checking the achievement window, a wolf suddenly lunged at him and turned into ash as it tackled him.

“Ugh!”

With a ridiculous scream, Ha Leeha tumbled into the snow.

Fortunately, Jellypong had protected his head well from the surprise attack by a previously dead wolf.

Even a Giant on all fours would be smaller than the wolf that had just pounced on Ha Leeha.

〈Achievement: Discovered a New Species!—Canidae(A-)〉

Congratulations!

You have discovered and hunted a new monster on the northern parts of the Lope Continent, presumed to be from the Canidae family! This mammal, different from the wolves commonly found in the midlands of the Lope Continent, has now attracted Shazrashian’s biologists.

The white-haired wolf appears to have mastered blending perfectly with the surrounding snow. A foolish hunter would only notice their existence after their claws tear through flesh.

Noticing their transparent eyes and claws, Shazrashian’s biologists have decided to commemorate you, their first discoverer, by naming it 〈Ice-Heart Wolf〉.

Rewards: Strength +8, agility +16, intelligence +8

(This achievement does not include a Hall of Fame.)

“Phew… Right, wolves don’t move alone, do they? I even learned that at Candle Castle.”

Ha Leeha pushed aside the wolf’s corpse that had pounced on him and managed to get up.

Indeed, the A-grade achievements possessed significant benefits.

Conversely, it meant that the monsters offering these achievements were of a considerably high level.

“It was really tough. The saber-toothed tigers with icicle fangs, the snowy grizzly bears, and the wolves larger than most bears… Despite their size, the bear and the wolf were almost invisible. Without 〈Distorted Vision〉, I would have faced a preemptive attack.”

Predators camouflaged to blend seamlessly with their environment, almost like they were using a 〈Camouflage〉 skill.

This battle made Ha Leeha appreciate the passive effect of 〈Distorted Vision〉.

Initially unseen, the hunters suddenly revealed their predatory gaze and claws when the skill’s passive effect activated.

‘Thank goodness the effort was worth it.’

Ha Leeha smirked at the achievement window.

The five achievements satisfied Ha Leeha in various ways.

The regional achievements “Cold Wind Mountain Range” and “Non-melting Ice Lake” were A-grade, providing 32 stat points each and increasing his ice resistance by 10%.

‘With all the ice resistance from roaming around Shazrashian, my ice resistance is already up to +90%.’

Thanks to the White Reaper quest and his travels through Shazrashian’s cold areas, Ha Leeha’s fire resistance had long surpassed 100%, and now his ice resistance was nearing 100% as well.

‘And the three monster achievements… They were interesting.’

Even though he didn’t particularly like some of the names, like 〈Saber—Leeha Tiger〉 or 〈Ice Grizzleeha〉, he still found some amusement in them.

After all, it meant his name was etched forever in Middle Earth.

More importantly, the estimated level and strength of these monsters felt significantly tougher than those on the new continent.

‘The hero-grade materials, the ample number of monsters… With proper camping, leveling up and collecting achievements could be feasible… Karelin would like it, wouldn’t he? Heh, it’s funny how, after opening such a difficult new area, the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 is busy searching the new continent. How pathetic.’

Ha Leeha opened his friend window to check on those whose locations were disclosed.

Almost every user was exploring the new continent.

Thanks to information he received from Kijung, Shin Nara, and Ram Hwayeon, he knew exactly what the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 was doing and where.

“Heh heh… Searching for the Demon King’s Fragments!? And instead of heading east, they’re starting their search in the west?”

This OFFICIAL ORDER left 〈Sacred Alliance〉 members unable to refuse, wasting their time unwillingly.

‘Experts with prior information, like Kidd and Luger, are lurking around the Corrupted World Tree’s Forest, but they can’t cross it.’

The central point of their defensive barrier was precisely at the Corrupted World Tree’s Forest on the new continent.

To cross it would signify a shift from defense or internal search to offensive action.

However, as thorough exploration of the western part of the new continent hadn’t yet been concluded, the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 was biding its time.
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‘Lark had said that as long as I aligned with Ewin, there would be no delays… but honestly, knowing that Kaztor had already left, I couldn’t help but feel anxious.’

Towards the place where it was presumed Elizabeth and Brown had headed, had they safely arrived at the Far East of the New Continent?

Kaztor would already be on his way there.

With the support of Bluebeard, no less.

‘Damn, I haven’t been able to start my full-fledged life in the New Continent yet. If others don’t act, there might be an opportunity…’

Lark had said something once.

Regardless of opportunities, if the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 crumbled, everything would be over.

And what was the highest probable cause that could lead to the fall of a force like the 〈Sacred Alliance〉?

‘《Matan’s Shooter》. If… if Elizabeth and Brown failed to properly control Kyle from Kaztor’s grasp―’

〈White Reaper〉 skill was one of the Matans’ skills.

No, one could call it a ‘trick’ that clumsily copied one of the Matans’ skills.

How many elite knight NPCs from Shazrashian had been eradicated by that trick shot?

“This is driving me crazy.”

It seemed more important for the vanguard to move first to stop Kaztor than for Ha Leeha to join as a follow-up.

Ha Leeha’s heart was far from peaceful, as he had to wander the northern part of the Old Continent in this dilemma-ridden situation.

“Let’s finish the setup quickly.”

Ha Leeha looked around.

At the foot of a hill where the biting mountain wind of the ‘Razor Wind’ mountain range blew, Ha Leeha quietly rummaged through his bag and took out a Snowball.

“If it’s a dragon… I’ll go straight away.”

After confirming the 〈Partner: Stand By〉 skill, storing his current location in the crystal ball for backup, Ha Leeha carefully picked up the Snowball.


‘Please, please… let’s finish it in one go!’

If the Snowball were destroyed, he might have to start by procuring 20,000 gold again!

Could he exchange it for rare minerals if the Giants found them?

No rare mineral could possibly be worth 20,000 gold.

‘So please―’

Tap.

Ha Leeha gently placed the Snowball on the neatly laid snow.

───────────────!

At that moment, a blinding white light burst forth.

“Ah! Wait― No―”

Ha Leeha reached out to pick up the Snowball.

Just before the light obstructed his vision, he saw the Snowball cracking and splitting.

‘Am I failing like this?! Damn it, they said it was pure snow, where in the world can I get purer snow than this―’

Giggle.

‘―Huh?’

The light hadn’t disappeared. Amidst blaming the world with his eyes tightly shut, Ha Leeha heard something laughing.

And he saw one thing.

The Spirit of Snow and Ice had been summoned.

The one who governed snow and ice. The Shimo had respected so much was neither a Chromatic Dragon nor a metal dragon.

It was something more fundamental than that.


Ha Leeha, with a spirit affinity higher than most Spirit Masters yet unable to properly recognize spirits, wanted to hit his own head.

* * *

―Prea?

―Oh my, it’s been a while since you contacted me! How have you been?

―… I think you should have contacted me occasionally even if I didn’t reach out first.

Hearing Ha Leeha’s whisper, Prea’s lips curled into a smile.

―I would if there was anything to report. Chiyou is so wary of me these days~. I’ve been having a hard time because she started wandering again.

Though Ha Leeha couldn’t see her, Prea suddenly grabbed her knee and pretended to struggle.

After a brief pause, Ha Leeha’s voice resurfaced.

―Ah, it’s not that. Let me ask you something first.

―Yes, go ahead.

―That time, you mentioned knowing the Spirit of Ice, right?

―Yes.

It was one of the disclosed facts when climbing the perpetual snow mountain.

It was Prea’s high-level usage of the Spirit of Ice that enabled her to greatly increase Chiyou’s ice resistance and protect her.

―Then, do you know a spirit named ‘Gerda’ by any chance?

―Gerda― of course.

‘Did he contact me to check on Chiyou’s hideout or activities, and now suddenly mentions Gerda? Most Spirit Masters don’t know that name.’

Prea tilted her head at Ha Leeha’s whisper.

No one knew more about the kinds or names of spirits than Prea. More importantly, it was a name only a Spirit Master would know.


Why did Ha Leeha mention Gerda at this timing?

―Do a good job from now on.

―Pardon?

―I found Gerda. Be diligent from now on. Loose contacts and sloppy work as a spy… won’t be acceptable.

―Hold on― What― What are you―

―I’ll end the contact now.

―Wait! Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha-nim!

Without giving Prea a chance to say anything more, Ha Leeha’s whisper ended.

Prea tried calling Ha Leeha several more times, but there was no response. Flustered, the white spiritualist urgently summoned someone knowledgeable about this matter.

“Gerda?! Gryphain, Gryphain!”

Whooosh…!

Before Prea, the advanced Spirit of Ice, Gryphain, appeared.

『You called.』

“Ge- Gerda. Gerda!”

『Gerda? Why are you seeking her?』

“Has Gerda made a contract with anyone? Or― is there something going on?”

『That I cannot know. However…』

Gryphain folded his arms and closed his eyes briefly. Prea waited with a pounding heart for his words.

『A short while ago, she was seen leaving somewhere.』

“Where? Where did she go!”

『I only saw her power leaving the spirit realm. Do you think I would know about her business?』

Gryphain’s face was twisted with irritation before he vanished with a gust of cold wind.

Prea, left standing in the cold breeze, couldn’t mask her bewilderment.

“God… Leeha, seriously?”

Did he summon Gerda!?

“That’s impossible! I’m still stuck with Gryphain!”

At the moment when Prea was shouting in distress, Leeha let out a sigh. To him, whispering to Prea had been just a form of ‘annoyance.’

“So… basically, I should start with the water spirits, right?”

『Yes. But as soon as I saw this guy, I knew. You are the one Elaim favors, aren’t you?』

“Favors… is a bit much, ha-ha.”

Leeha scratched his head.

Jellypong was held by someone else, looking uncomfortable.

A figure who commanded such presence that each step made snow whirl around her.

『In addition to Ifrit-nim, the Fire Spirits’ realm also heard about it… the dark spirits are quite curious about this person… and we, too, haven’t seen the horror known as “Uncanny” for a long time. And now, such a human has summoned me, the top-grade ice spirit… ignoring Gryphain and every other spirit of ice and snow, you directly summoned me…』

Gerda, the top-grade ice spirit, was glaring at Leeha.

Leeha struggled to understand the situation.

“Well, the thing is—I didn’t exactly summon you because I wanted to. Um, how can I explain this?”

All Leeha had to go on were hints from the system notification windows.

Affinity with water spirits is above 50%.

Affinity with more than four types of spirits is above 30%.

He also had intimacy with all spirits.

The spirits of snow and ice recognize him.

‘Perhaps those conditions were something like that.’

Maybe they were the minimum requirements to summon a snow and ice spirit.

Leeha had incredibly high affinity with water spirits, Jellypong included, so much so that he could be said to have 100% affinity with them.

‘In other words, I exceeded the minimum requirements by far…’

Shimo never mentioned this.

Looking back, there seemed to be hints to learn something from the spirits of snow and ice, but the term “top-grade” had never been mentioned.

Normally, a lower or mid-tier snow and ice spirit would have been summoned.

However, Leeha’s path had always been unique and pioneering, which Middle Earth’s system acknowledged.

『Interesting.』

“Pardon?”

『A person so intertwined with spirits… now comes to us as the “White Reaper”.』

“Uh, um—thank you very much.”

Leeha hastily bowed.

He didn’t know for sure, but one could easily assume who held the key to this quest.

Moreover, the fact that Gerda knew about the “White Reaper” was proof enough.

‘If that’s the case, I need to make a good impression!’

As if reading Leeha’s mind, Gerda scoffed and spoke.

『No matter the place, time, or situation, you wish to use our power… and to wield the “White Reaper” based on our strength, right?』

“That’s correct, Gerda-nim.”

Seeing Leeha bowing as if to break his back, Gerda laughed softly.

『Alright, I will teach you. But…』

“Yes—”

『However… we have recently been concerned with something. Could you check it for us?』

“—Excuse me?”

An unexpected spirit had shown up.

Even though he was flustered, Leeha had a deep connection with spirits, to the point where he could be called a “Spirit’s Shooter” so his intimacy with them was high.

Therefore, he thought things might proceed more easily, but of course, that wasn’t the case.

Shwaa…!

A holographic window appeared in front of Leeha.

『Unsettling Underground』

Description: “Over there… Do you see the cave at the foot of the mountain? There’s a path leading underground if you enter there. Can you investigate the underground? Recently, it began emitting an uncanny cold that even terrifies us. It’s a chill so severe that it could devour me whole… I can sense something sinister. If you find anything, I will inform the spirit king.”

The top-grade ice spirit Gerda seemed to have sensed something in the underground of the Gale Mountain Range. Investigate the area and report the cause to her.

Objective: Find the source of the ‘unsettling chill’ under the ‘Gale Mountain Range.’

Reward: Skill—Snow Storm

Do you accept?

* * *

‘One go!? A skill in one go—no, but…’

The quest reward was so enticing that Leeha’s eyes glimmered.

Snow Storm, a blizzard.

Just from the name alone, he could ascertain that the skill would definitely be the foundation of the “White Reaper”.

“So… what might be in the underground? What did you feel?”

『Would I ask you if I knew that?』

“Ah, yes, you are absolutely correct… but aren’t there types of chills? Like cold, eerie, chilly, stuff like that… If you, the top-grade ice spirit, could describe exactly what you felt, I would understand right away.”

Despite Gerda’s cold response, Leeha kept smiling. The quest needed to be accepted anyway. The task was simply to find the cause, not to eliminate it.

‘This is… too easy.’

It alarmed Leeha’s intuition. Middle Earth didn’t hand out skills so easily.

It usually requires finding an unsettling cause, destroying it, or implementing measures to bring warmth to the place.

‘But just finding the cause ends it?’

That alone made it valuable for Leeha to show humility to Gerda.

『My, my, you sure know how to please. Want to be my slave?』

“Uh… what?”

Perhaps Gerda liked his attitude.

Despite her revealing appearance, Leeha was not one to be swayed by it.

After briefly losing his composure, Leeha quickly fixed his expression and asked her again.

“Instead of that… if you could answer my question, it would aid me in carrying out your task, Gerda-nim.”

If you favor slaves, I’ll play along!

Though he hadn’t agreed to be a slave, Leeha’s kowtowing attitude seemed to greatly satisfy Gerda.

‘Having high intimacy with spirits isn’t always beneficial… this just feels like unnecessary hassle.’

As Leeha muttered to himself, Gerda finally wore a serious expression.

『It’s an unsettling tremor. Eerie… even ‘eerie’ might not be enough to describe it.』

“You, a top-grade ice spirit, feel it? Feeling the cold—”

『We don’t understand the concept of coldness. We are the cold itself. As such, the chill I sense isn’t related to temperature, understood?』

“Of course.”

『Something… exists. Even the lowest or mid-tier spirits are frightened by the occasional screeches they hear.』

Like the spirits of darkness that dwelled in the “Forest of Shadows”, it seemed the ice spirits inhabited somewhere in the Gale Mountain Range.
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『You, made a contract with Uncanny, right? That guy might know.』

“Uncanny… Trembling due to fear.”

The terror spirit had not appeared in the world for a long time. Even Blaugrunn was surprised, and the supreme ice spirit mentioned it directly.

‘If this is a hint…’

There was nothing to fear.

Gerda’s words were likely correct. If so, it meant that at least there was no problem involving the ice spirit or dragons.

Then?

The target was likely the terror spirit.

“I’ll handle it.”

With Uncanny present and an increased affinity with all dark attribute spirits, Ha Leeha couldn’t find an easier task.

* * *

Ha Leeha walked while checking the quest window once again.

It seemed related to spirits, but he couldn’t help wondering if it was Middle Earth’s trap.

‘Anyway, since I’ve accepted the quest, it’s set… I just hope my guess is right.’

Of course, he couldn’t be completely relieved just by that.

When the cave at the foot of the mountain became quite visible, Ha Leeha asked Blaugrunn about the current quest.

* * *

― A group of fear spirits? I don’t think such a thing still exists on the continent.

― What if they live deep underground where even dragons might not know?

― Hmm… My past mana may not have been great, but at least I’ve never detected any presence. And though my social skills are not the best, not a single metal dragon I know has ever mentioned a group of fear spirits. And I’ve told you before.


The terror spirit was extremely rare.

Even if it had appeared in this world instead of the spirit realm, Blaugrunn judged that it wouldn’t be found in a group.

* * *

― Then what could it be? An opponent that even the supreme ice spirit would fear.

― I’m curious too. Ah! Can’t we just leave those useless humans and go there?

Blaugrunn complained, but Ha Leeha opposed it.

― No, no. Who knows what might be there? Imagine finding Blessed Mithril or something like that super expensive Pink Diamond! The finances of Gaza City aren’t great, so we need to save every penny. Please bear with it a bit.

― Ugh, alright.

Hearing Blaugrunn’s cute sigh, Ha Leeha also felt a bit regretful.

They had spent too much money in the war against the giants, so they had to scrape up resources by any means.

‘I need to buy a new hat too… I saw a legendary hat at the auction last time!’

A mask suitable for assassins!

It increased agility, movement speed, and also had special effects that reduced footstep noise while hiding in shadows.

For Ha Leeha, no longer had the harpy hat, it was a mouth-watering item, but for someone without money, it was an unattainable dream.

Whooooo…!

Talking with Blaugrunn, Ha Leeha eventually reached the entrance of the cave.

A cold wind blew out, making an unpleasant noise.

“Alright… Let’s go in. Jellypong, hold the torch.”

『Nyong!』

As Jellypong lit up the fire, Ha Leeha grabbed the Black Bass tightly.


On his waist dangled the claw daggers of Toon and two musket-pistols, prepared for close-range threats.

‘Huh? No regional achievements popping up.’

Had someone already been here? No, that couldn’t be.

‘To get here, you’d have to pass through the spot where I used the Snowball. If anyone had, Gerda wouldn’t have appeared.’

He had completed the quest.

Pure snow.

Since no one had stepped foot here, Gerda had appeared.

Yet a cave that seemed to contain something didn’t show any regional achievements?

‘High probability of a spirit. Low probability of a dragon. Either way, something more than just a monster is here.’

It indicated that there was something more than just a simple monster.

Walking into the dark cave didn’t particularly scare Ha Leeha.

Whatever was in here, he believed he wouldn’t be killed in one blow.

And so far, teleportation wasn’t obstructed.

Could it be called an adventure if defense and escape were guaranteed? Moreover, he had 《Piercing Eyes》 and 《Mana Clairvoyance》!

Clack—!

Ha Leeha pulled the bolt back, loading a round, and continued walking. The cave was dug into the mountainside but wasn’t flat.

Just as Gerda had mentioned, at certain points it sloped steeply downward or had terrain close to a cliff, allowing him to reach ‘deep under the ground.’

‘How deep does this go?’

Overcoming all the obstacles, Ha Leeha descended further.

The chill grew increasingly severe.


After descending for about an hour, something finally caught Ha Leeha’s eye.

You resisted abnormal status: Extreme Cold (Enhanced).

You resisted abnormal status: Frostbite (Enhanced).

You resisted abnormal status: Freezing (Enhanced).

“The status ailments from the Everlasting Snow Mountain…? No way… Is it that level?”

He knew there was a coldness strong enough to daunt even the supreme ice spirit. But starting penalties at an Everlasting Snow Mountain level of cold?

That couldn’t be.

If it were, the surroundings should be ice walls instead of stone walls.

And yet, to impose status ailments like those from the Everlasting Snow Mountain?

‘If my ice resistance wasn’t at 90%, I would’ve had to turn back from here.’

Ha Leeha’s instincts began to sense danger.

Something not merely unpleasant but dangerous and lethal was here.

‘At least something on the level of…’

At minimum, something comparable to Bathory.

“Jellypong, shine the light over there!”

『Nyong!』

At that moment, Ha Leeha finally detected movement. Jellypong quickly redirected the torch.

In the direction where a lump of mana was wriggling, Ha Leeha shone the light to confirm.

Though resembling a human form, it slightly glowed blue and was a skeleton.

“… Undead? Skeleton?”

The clattering sound of bones echoed in Ha Leeha’s ears.

* * *

『Myong―』

“Shh. Jellypong, turn off the light.”

Jellypong immediately rubbed the torch against the cave wall and extinguished it.

The inside of the cave plunged into complete darkness. Ha Leeha confirmed the skeleton’s movements through mana vision, then cautiously pulled out his night-vision goggles.

After a brief buzz―, the shape of the skeleton began to come into view.

‘That’s a high-level skeleton. It’s perfectly equipped with armor, and the quality of its weapon is excellent.’

The level of an undead is generally determined by the equipment it wears.

Even Faust, in his ranker days, had only used mere skeletal soldiers or zombies with significant parts of their bodies damaged.

Recently, although it’s unclear if it could be called a second job change, he transformed into a vampire, utilizing full-fledged zombies, ghouls, and skeletons wielding armor and swords.

The difficulties he’d gone through because of that were immense.

‘Does this mean the level of this skeleton exceeds that of Faust’s summoned creatures?’

The skeleton in front of him was so spotless that it was hard to make a comparison.

‘That’s definitely top-grade.’

Ha Leeha wondered if, someday, even a user or Faust could summon something of this level. That would indeed be troublesome.

After scanning the surroundings thoroughly with the night-vision goggles, Ha Leeha moved slowly.

‘The creatures without ears are sensitive to sound.’

Sensitivity to sound was a common trait among undead like zombies!

Even the smallest noise would make the creature charge at him immediately.

‘Good thing there’s only one of them…’

Could that skeleton have really scared even a high-ranking ice spirit?

Impossible. No matter how strong, a skeleton couldn’t do that.

‘There’s no way such a skeleton could frighten a top-grade ice spirit.’

Blaugrunn had already informed him.

‘It started with the spirits of light and darkness, right? Spirits of light and darkness are considered a grade higher than basic spirits… If that’s true for the ice spirit as well…’

Would that mean the top-grade ice spirit Gerda is on par with the water spirit king Elaim?

Ha Leeha shook his head.

No matter how he thought about it, it couldn’t be.

He couldn’t consider it stronger than the spirit king; otherwise, the spirit realm itself wouldn’t make sense.

‘It’s more likely stronger than a top-grade water spirit but below a spirit king. That’s probably accurate.’

Thus, Gerda would never lose in a fight against other top-grade spirits and could probably handle more than one at a time depending on the situation.

There was no way that a spirit of such power would be afraid of a single skeleton.

Reassessing the situation, Ha Leeha observed the skeleton’s movements.

It seemed to be on patrol, not straying from its range as it moved with a bony rigidity.

‘The path is over there, and I have about 13 seconds to move. Time doesn’t seem short.’

He could slip into the path behind the skeleton when its back was turned.

Ha Leeha signaled Jellypong to be ready to move and waited.

Then, as the clattering skeleton turned around.

‘Now!’

『Myong!』

Swish―!

Jellypong’s tendrils started moving, striking the cave walls.

“Caw caw caw?”

Perhaps due to the sound generated by three-dimensional movement. The skeleton suddenly turned around.

“Caw caw caw… caw.”

But that was it.

Ha Leeha had already slipped past it.

Infiltrating relatively smoothly, he advanced further into the cave.

‘Nice― no, Jellypong! Stop! Stop! Stick to the ceiling!’

Ha Leeha clung to the cave ceiling like Spider-Man. It was a relief that the cave’s interior was spacious.

The clattering of bones and the sound of torn flesh scraping the floor echoed everywhere.

“Caw caw caw… caw…”

“Caw caw caw caw―”

“Grigg grigg grigg…”

Peering down from the ceiling, Ha Leeha blinked his eyes.

‘What on earth―’

What walked below were countless undead. The skeleton he encountered earlier could have just been a ‘stray’.

The undead below moved with clear order and even communicated in seemingly incomprehensible chatter.

‘Undead? Acting like this― Undead acting in such a manner, I’ve never heard of!’

But this astonishment was just the beginning. Not just the cave ceiling Ha Leeha was clinging to, but all the surrounding paths were tunnels.

Until now, he thought it was just a cave, but the realization struck him clearly.

And at the end of the tunnel, illuminated so brightly even through the night-vision goggles, was a blinding light.

A light so brilliant it could be seen without the goggles!

‘Undead behaving collectively… the light at the end of the tunnel, and those markings and styles on the tunnel walls seen between the skeletons and zombies…’

The bizarre undead monsters seen between the skeletons and zombies, and the various markings and styles on the walls of the tunnel extending towards the light―

‘A town? A city? A fortress?’

Those were the terms that came to Ha Leeha’s mind first.

If he exited through the end of this tunnel, reaching that faintly illuminated place, what would he find?

Could it be a massive city of undead that lived collectively, unlike natural occurrences at graveyards or former large battlefields!

‘No, if such a place exists―’

Who rules over it?

Ha Leeha swallowed his dry spit. In the past, he would have left immediately. Because there was no way to pass through the tunnels without getting caught by the undead.

No matter how quietly he moved on the ceiling, Jellypong’s tendrils would inevitably make some noise on the cave ceiling, and the sound-sensitive creatures would surely find him.

‘But this time.’

He had the 〈Breath of Melting〉.

Unlike camouflage, a perfect assimilation skill without a “1 meter per minute” movement limitation.

-Blaugrunn?

-Yes?

-Have you ever heard of undead living collectively― forming villages like Kobolds, Goblins, or Orcs?

-What!? What are you talking about? Undead fundamentally don’t have intelligence. And high-class undead like Dullahans aren’t numerous enough for that. That’s why necromancers― wait, where are you? Should I come?

-No, no. Stay where you are. It’s better if you’re outside in case of an emergency extraction.
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Blaugrunn wanted to go to Ha Leeha immediately, but Ha Leeha refused. There was something here that even Blaugrunn did not fully understand.

Above all, they had not yet identified the cause of the “chilling cold”.

‘Even if I say there’s an undead village, Gerda wouldn’t acknowledge it.’

What was inside?

That was what the highest-level ice elemental desired.

“Whew, whew, whew. Jellypong?”

『Myong?』

“Let’s go. Slowly, very slowly…”

– Ha Leeha-ssi! Ha Leeha-ssi?!

– I can’t use the messenger anymore. I’ll contact you when I return.

– Wouldn’t it be better to investigate a bit more before you go? If you ask Lordna or something, she might know something—

– Haha, it’s a waste of time. Seeing it with my own eyes is the fastest way. So, wait for the good news!

– Wait a minute! You don’t even know what’s there, you can’t just go alone to such a strange place—

‘〈Melding Breath〉.’

His breath melded into nature.

All sounds were muted.

All chats, including whispers, were prohibited.

Wheeeew…

Haaaah…

He could feel himself inhaling and exhaling, but he couldn’t even hear his own breath.


No heartbeat, neither the rattling noises from earlier nor the indistinct mumbling of the undead was audible.

It was like being submerged underwater, but much more brutally soundproofed.

Ha Leeha tapped Jellypong’s tentacles lightly, then moved his fingers to point forward.

Though he couldn’t hear, the extension of Jellypong’s tentacles indicated that it understood his intentions.

‘Not hearing my own heartbeat makes it even quieter.’

He felt excitement and tension but struggled to properly perceive his own state. Finally, Ha Leeha’s body began to move.

It was an adventure in an unexplored underground area of the northern icy mountain range in the old continent.

* * *

‘Now that I think about it, didn’t someone mention discovering an underground ruin? Could this place also be something like that?’

Of the countless locations discovered by Fernand, Ha Leeha knew one.

If this place turned out to be an ancient lost city or kingdom, the rewards from this discovery would be unimaginable.

‘Ha, and of course, that right belongs to me, the first discoverer. Hmm, will Fibiel and Shazrashian end up fighting over it?’

The icy mountain range was newly opened Shazrashian territory.

However, Ha Leeha who discovered a huge underground secret ruin belonged to Fibiel.

‘I hope my discovery doesn’t cause a conflict. Oh! Should I inform the Shazrashian president in advance?’

Thankfully, they were allied nations, so they would proceed with excavation and investigation cooperatively. Ha Leeha was already contemplating the potential benefits he might receive.

Though slowly, Jellypong was advancing steadily.

Since Ha Leeha couldn’t hear any sounds, he couldn’t be sure how long it had been, but moving slowly meant none of the undead below paid any attention to him.

‘Most of them are skeletons. There are quite a few zombies and ghouls too… the types are more varied the deeper we go.’

There were even scenes of skeletons gesturing to each other. All the skeletons looked perfectly human in terms of equipment; they were simply lacking flesh and muscle.


It was almost as if transformed humans were conversing as skeletons.

Of course, Ha Leeha was recording everything.

‘These aren’t even Dullahan-level undead talking… Skeletons dressed in robes walking around… Man.’

Skeleton mages did exist. But they were just former NPCs who became undead after dying; they had known how to handle mana in life.

But the skeleton mage Ha Leeha saw now?

It wore a robe like a real living mage and even carried a wand. There was something definitely suspicious. Sensing the light becoming brighter, Ha Leeha removed his night vision goggles.

Now, he could see the undead’s faces with his naked eyes.

He also clearly saw the symbols on the wall.

‘A slightly stretched horizontal X-pattern. This sure isn’t the flag of any of the current four nations on the Lope continent. I don’t recall any knightly orders or aristocratic NPC families using it. And it’s not even a shield, that’s—’

It was an emblem like an elongated X, surrounded by a heart.

Quite different from the usual emblems formed by combining flora and fauna in a shield-like drawing.

Ha Leeha stared at the emblem and recorded it.

Using a playback item, it would be possible to show it in-game to Blaugrunn or Gerda. After proceeding cautiously for a while, Ha Leeha finally saw what lay beyond the corridor.

‘Whoa… What the, did I just say whoa out loud?’

He had to be extra careful as he couldn’t even hear his own voice. Ha Leeha quickly covered his mouth.

It was an awe-inspiring sight.

Exiting the corridor, he found himself in a massive hall. But it wasn’t just the hall that was surprising.

Behind the hall, he saw a colossal underground cavity.

A gigantic underground cavity, grander and beginning much deeper than the gorilla paleo cities, with a towering fortress in view.

‘And what’s with this structure?!’


From the hall, endless stairways descended.

The hall itself seemed to have no other purpose than serving as a landing for stairs or an escalator.

Ha Leeha quickly surveyed his surroundings.

But there were no other exits.

‘If I keep climbing along this wall, will I eventually reach the ceiling? But— even if I do, it’d be impossible to observe everything below.’

Now, his only option was to descend the stairs after passing through the hall, surrounded by an innumerable number of undead.

‘This is still just the entrance, isn’t it? One of probably several entrances…’

Ha Leeha clung to the wall and peeked around. The corridor’s ceiling, from which he barely arrived at the hall, had several similar corridors visible in his field of view.

If such halls surrounded this vast underground cavity in a circular pattern, and considering the span and gaps, he estimated there had to be at least thirty such entrances.

‘Alright, let’s assume there are a thousand undead per corridor and entrance. Then… how many more are there in that massive space below?’

Ha Leeha felt chills run down his spine.

How could such a space exist?

So, what was inside there?

Ha Leeha had to re-strategize.

Even if he moved around while invisible, he would inevitably bump into the undead and get caught immediately. In that case, he needed a form that could withstand collisions.

He poked at Jellypong a couple of times.

After confirming that Jellypong’s eyes were slowly opening, Ha Leeha pointed in the direction he had come from. Jellypong began to retrace its steps slowly and cautiously.

Thus, Ha Leeha emerged from the wall of the hall to the ceiling of the passageway, and from there back to the area where the first skeleton was.

“Deactivate ‘Melding Breath’.”

Bzzz―!

The sudden influx of all surrounding sounds made Ha Leeha feel dizzy.

However, he couldn’t afford to hold his head and wait.

‘Jellypong?’

『Myong-myoung?』

‘Neutralize that skeleton. Just restrain it; don’t kill it. Can you do that?’

『Myong-myong!』

Ha Leeha stealthily took out an item from his bag. Then, he commanded Jellypong.

‘Let’s go, combat Mode: Strength.’

Unlike the agility-focused attack mode, this combat mode massively increased strength and stamina.

Jellypong, now semi-transparent and jelly-like, gleamed more intensely.

Just as Ha Leeha was thinking that—

“Ka-Kaka-Kat?!”

『Muuuuuu―!』

The skeleton was startled and confused by the sudden appearance of the strange creature, while Jellypong, letting out a buffalo-like cry, swallowed the skeleton whole.

“……Unbelievable.”

The skeleton was trapped inside Jellypong, flailing around as if in a water prison.

“Better than killing it—Jellypong! Just pull the skull out!”

『Mooong!』

The giant jelly, capable of swallowing a skeleton, wriggled. The skeleton inside struggled, but it was futile.

Soon, the bone neck of the skeleton cracked and started pushing against Jellypong’s surface.

“Anyway, you don’t die from this, so be thankful.”

Ha Leeha placed a pair of bulbous glasses on the skeleton’s face.

A moment later, he took off the glasses from the monster’s face and put them on himself.

『Moo, moong!』

“You’ve seen this a few times already. It’s nothing new. Last time, you even transformed into my likeness.”

As Ha Leeha talked, his bone face made clicking sounds due to the jawbone movements.

“Jellypong! Don’t kill him, but break all his limbs, including his leg bones, and throw them in eight directions.”

If this skeleton was a guard, killing it might trigger some alarm.

But neither could Ha Leeha leave it alive after it had seen his disguised form.

Thus, this was the method he chose.

‘If I can’t pass through invisibly… I’ll take on your form.’

From inside Jellypong, the sound of the skeleton’s bones breaking with loud cracks was audible.

* * *

‘You must not make any sound, got it? Even if I take damage, don’t protect me. Just stay still. Let’s switch to a sword.’

『Myong!』

After ending combat mode, Jellypong quickly transformed on Ha Leeha’s command.

Though Ha Leeha had mimicked the skeleton’s appearance perfectly, he lacked one crucial thing: the sword the skeleton was holding!

Jellypong transformed into a sword and was gripped by Ha Leeha.

Holding the sword handle, which felt unusually squishy, Ha Leeha shivered for a moment.

‘If we get caught, we’ll be out in a flash. No excuses.’

Ha Leeha’s mind was filled with the thought that causing a ruckus might blow his narrow chance entirely.

His goal was to get in, confirm the identity discreetly, and get out without anyone knowing.

‘Damn, I can’t see a thing. Can’t use night vision goggles either.’

The only downside was the darkness.

To an observer, Ha Leeha would appear identical to the skeleton, but to himself, he was walking while wearing the bulbous glasses, making it impossible to use night vision goggles.

‘Judging by the sounds around me, more undead should start appearing soon. In any case, this direction is correct.’

Before long, even his mana vision ended.

All he could rely on was his passive skill, ‘Distorted Vision’!

It wasn’t a bright green vision like night vision goggles, nor was it a perfect thermal camera-like man vision.

But it did vaguely show the mana held by the surrounding monsters, and if he looked up occasionally, it showed the ‘wind path’ inside the cave, allowing Ha Leeha to move along the airflow.

Clatter— Clatter— Ssssss……. Ugh.

The surrounding noises grew denser. Ha Leeha continued walking with his senses on high alert.

Or so he thought.

Thud—

‘Gasp!’

Hadn’t he already verified the number of undead while traversing along the ceiling with Jellypong earlier?

Perfectly avoiding them was impossible from the start.

“Gellgellgellgell?”

A strange sound came from next to Ha Leeha’s left cheek.

The rotten stench was so horrible that he wanted to cover his nose, but he refrained from showing any reaction.

“Gellgellgell?”

‘Shit, what are they saying? I can’t communicate—’

“Gellgell, gellgellgellgell.”

But standing still wasn’t an option either.

The undead’s voice got louder, and Ha Leeha noticed other voices joining in.

“Drikiiii……. Phoohooo…….”

“Kakakakakaka?”

It felt like mere noise, but they clearly reacted to each other’s sounds.

Ha Leeha soon realized that this was their version of a ‘conversation’. He had only one choice left.

“Kaa— Kakakaa.”

“Gel?”

“Kakakaa— Kakakkak.”

A bizarre sound emerged as he nearly choked himself with his tongue.

‘…Did I get caught?’

At least, it sounded most like the skeleton whose limbs he had just broken.

The atmosphere in the passageway turned cold as a result of the lifeline imitation.
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“Gahl, gahl, gahl.”

Thud, thud, thud.

Ha Leeha felt a creepy sensation on his shoulder but fortunately, he didn’t strike back.

The presence he sensed moments ago started to move away with a swoosh, swoosh sound.

“Damn, that was close.”

He thought about how Jellypong would have retaliated immediately if he had acted hastily, and felt relieved that no one here knew him, then continued walking the path.

How many times had he bumped into skeletons, stepped on the robes of skeleton mages, and buried his face into the chests of zombies?

Finally, a light at the end of the tunnel began to appear in Ha Leeha’s sight.

Now that he could see properly, there was no room for mistakes.

Ha Leeha skillfully, but inconspicuously, mimicked the walking posture of the skeletons around him as he moved forward.

He managed to engrave the patterns around him into his memory and moved out of the corridor.

Hwaaaaa…

He found himself back in the grand hall he had seen earlier, the entrance descending into the underground chasm.

– Blaugrunn-ssi.

– Ha Leeha-nim! Where are you? What happened? Are you okay?

– Yes, I’m fine. Long story short, there’s an undead world below ground. It seems to be some sort of ruins.

– Ruins? Undead ruins?

– I have no idea. Could be from ancient civilization… By the way, I see a castle.

Ha Leeha avoided the undead around him as he spoke. As he approached the hall’s border, there indeed was a stairway leading downward as expected.

The visibility of the castle indicated that it was situated in the center of this enormous underground chasm…


– And also… if we are talking about just this underground space, it seems broader and larger than the Gorilia paleo’s underground city.

There were countless buildings surrounding the castle.

This place was a perfectly structured city inhabited by the undead.

Ba-bam!

An achievement window popped up in front of Ha Leeha’s eyes.

* * *

〈Achievement: First Discovery―Peklo City (S)〉

Congratulations!

You have discovered an uncharted location. The underground city known as Peklo, the “City of Shattered Souls”, is now open to you. Who created this place, where every undead exists? The collective behavior exhibited by the undead proves the existence of a higher controlling entity. Can you find the boss of Peklo City? Middle Earth is closely watching you.

Please proceed with caution.

Reward: 50 Stat Points

(This is an achievement with no Hall of Fame entry.)

“What the—”

Simple discovery achievements were rare, much less one worth 50 stat points and ranked S-class.

Was it because the cave he had entered was not important enough to trigger an achievement earlier?

“City of Shattered Souls? A place where every undead exists—”

Hooooooo…

A mighty roar echoed from afar, making Ha Leeha freeze.

The sound reverberated through the vast underground space, making it hard to pinpoint its source.

“What is that sound…? I’ve heard it before—yeah, that’s it! The ‘Eagle’s Eye’!”


However, it didn’t take long for Ha Leeha to identify the source of the sound. He maximized his visual zoom to look into the distant air.

Flying around near the castle was no doubt…

– Blaugrunn-ssi!

– Yes! I’m coming—

– No! Don’t come! Peklo City! The City of Shattered Souls! You can’t possibly not know this place! This is—

Ha Leeha swallowed hard before continuing urgently.

– A place where lich dragons fly! Do some research and contact me quickly!

Flying around the visible castle were not just one, but several lich dragons.

Ha Leeha quickly started descending the stairs.

What kind of place was this?

Who set up this enormous undead city, including lich dragons, and granted an S-class achievement just for discovering it?

“That’s it. This person…”

Was it the individual feared by Gerda, the top-grade spirit of eyes and ice?

A sense of foreboding pierced through Ha Leeha’s entire being, but he couldn’t stop now.

Blaugrunn’s whisper came back faster than Ha Leeha had anticipated.

– Ha Leeha-nim.

– You already found out?

– Come back immediately. I’m summoning you.

– What?! Why! No way!

– Peklo City, city Peklo! Do you even know what that place is!? Or how it even exists on the Ropaeo continent!? What on earth happened to the northern continent—


Blaugrunn’s voice was frantic.

For the first time, Ha Leeha heard such an anxious tone from Blaugrunn, as if chastising him.

– Why? What’s wrong?

– During the 2nd Human-Demon War, it was a place sought by numerous dragons, including the Lord, but never found.

More surprising than Blaugrunn’s frantic voice was Ha Leeha’s halted steps as he hurried down the staircase.

– The 2nd Human-Demon War?

– If Peklo City is indeed what I think it is, what I know it to be—

A place even Bahamut, the chief of the Metal Dragons, couldn’t find.

If anyone could hide from him, there were only three known entities.

One was Bluebeard.

And another? The other Demon King’s Fragment who had power equivalent to Bluebeard, Gibrid.

– There are three Demon King’s Fragments. Two have awakened. So this means…

As if confirming Ha Leeha’s thoughts, Blaugrunn spoke the answer.

– That place is the city created by the third Demon King’s Fragment. During the 2nd Human-Demon War, it tormented us with endless undead… The lair of ‘Pyrot Cocri’.

The necromancer who commanded all phantoms and undead.

The idol and king of all necromancers.

The one who killed all living beings and held them under her control.

Ha Leeha had heard that name before.

He found it in the archives about the 2nd Human-Demon War in the Royal Records of Fibiel.

‘It was definitely written there. Absolutely.’

Pyrot Cocri.

The horrific records associated with that name were abundant even from the brief moment Ha Leeha glanced through Elizabeth and Brown’s records.

‘Damn…’

An S-grade achievement wasn’t something you earned for nothing.

He should have realized it when he got an S-grade achievement just for “discovering the place”, unlike when he killed Toon or completed his second job change.

Why was the top-grade spirit stronger than the top-grade spirits of the four classical elements, Gerda of Ice and Snow, trembling in fear?

Ha Leeha cursed as he stared at the massive city before him. It was a moment when the phrase ‘no options left’ precisely suited the situation.

** * **

– Oh, oh, what should we do? Blaugrunn? What do you think we should do?

– Hurry, get out of there!

– But if I go out now…

He regretted missing this opportunity.

Of course, Ha Leeha had his own reasons for feeling this regret.

– … What if Pyrot Cocri hasn’t awakened yet?

– What?

– Luger! You heard about Luger finding Bluebeard first, right? Luger said that when he found it, it was sleeping in a bright red crystal ball. So if it’s in that state now, there’s still a chance.

Luger’s report went only that far. The truth was known only to Luger.

He couldn’t exactly tell the Ezwen Papacy that his attack had ‘triggered an effect’ on Bluebeard, making it seem as if it awakened.

– Are you serious? If Pyrot Cocri were awake, it would have ripped Ha Leeha into twelve pieces and turned the ripped pieces into undead—

– Exactly! See, it hasn’t appeared before me! If it hasn’t awakened yet, my attack might work. I might be able to seal one of the Demon King’s Fragments again! And if Blaugrunn comes, it’ll be even more certain! Or, if we call Lord Bahamut!

Ha Leeha felt his brain accelerating.

Sudden ideas formed a series of logical flows.

Starting from the premise that Pyrot Cocri wasn’t awakened yet, he wondered if there might be some way to completely destroy or strengthen the seal on the Demon King’s Fragment.

Blaugrunn couldn’t argue against that.

As Blaugrunn himself had said, if Pyrot Cocri were fully awakened, it would have sensed the presence of a ‘living being’ infiltrating the undead city of Peklo City. It would have appeared before Ha Leeha immediately upon sensing something unusual.

– Couldn’t we do it? A crisis can become an opportunity, Blaugrunn.

Among the three Demon King’s Fragment, the only one that was fully active was Bluebeard.

Gibrid was still in the process of recovering strength.

Yet, just one not fully recovered Gibrid made life incredibly difficult for all users and human NPCs.

If, in such a situation, Pyrot Cocri awakens, it could lead to the defeat of the Sacred Alliance and the Human Union.

‘Moreover, this is the Old Continent. That would be the worst.’

All the strongest forces of the Four Nations of the Rope Continent were dispatched to the New Continent under the name of the Sacred Alliance.

Even if they found Bluebeard and Gibrid, if Pyrot Cocri in Peklo City awakens?

Facing the Demon King’s Fragments rampaging on both the New and Old Continent would be extremely challenging.

‘So we must kill it now. Or at least strengthen the seal. Ensure it never awakens again, burying this entire underground city.’

It was impossible for Ha Leeha alone.

But wasn’t there a being with enough power to make the impossible possible?

– I’ll report to the Lord. But remember, never fight it alone. Contact me immediately when you find Pyrot Cocri.

The King of the Metal Dragons. Perhaps the Platinum Dragon Bahamut could do it. It might easily handle even an unawakened Demon King’s Fragment.

– Phew… Okay. Got it. Let’s start again.

Ha Leeha twisted his neck, cracking it.

The sound of the vertebrae cracking was audible. Warming up as a skeleton was undoubtedly abnormal, but there was no time to worry about such a triviality now.

‘Character window.’

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Job: White Reaper / Level: 257 (20.37%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 169

HP: 11,090(7,763)

MP: 3,765

Stats: Strength 864(+779)

Agility 4,295(+1,570)

Intelligence 615(+399)

Constitution 431(+305)

Mentality 253(+155)

Remaining Stat Points: 352

‘I could use these stat points.’

The recent S-grade achievement awarded him a whopping 50 points.

In total, the accumulated number was 352. Excluding the S-grade rewards, he still had over 300 stat points left.

‘I intended to use them judiciously when needed… not even knowing the prerequisites for White Reaper.’

He would have moved without a second thought under normal circumstances.

But given the place and the opponent, he knew better than anyone that it would be foolish.

‘105 points into Agility. That makes it 4,400 agility, making it a total of 44 rounds of Multi-Warhead Shot. And 147 points into Mind. Total Mind is 400, and full MP is a total of 5,235.’

A near-instant 1,500 MP boost was an overwhelming stat allocation.

Even if a single use of the Multi-Warhead Shot didn’t work, he could use it twice in succession and still have enough MP left for an additional Mana Vaporizing Shot.

Despite this insane stat boost, he still had 100 stat points left.

Ha Leeha considered investing the remaining points into Constitution but soon dismissed the idea.

‘Jellypong can block 50,000 damage. Even if I invest 100 points in Constitution, if Jellypong disappears, I’m dead.’

He’d have to endure the attack of a Demon King’s Fragment.

So he decided to save the stats for now.

‘This place is recognized as a city, even in minute stat adjustments.’

He adjusted the distribution in detailed stat allocations, initially set for coordination of hands and eyes, to significantly boost movement speed.

If he could dodge even one attack from Pyrot Cocri, it would be far more effective than investing 100 points into Constitution.
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“Phew… Alright.”

After completing all the preparations perfectly, Leeha started heading towards the citadel that rose in the center of the city.

The architecture, made with an unknown mix of bones and other materials, irritated his nerves.

However, Leeha did not have the luxury to observe his surroundings in detail.

He focused all his nerves on Pyrot Cocri, walking along the path to the citadel.

It was obvious that the boss would exist in the largest citadel in this immense city.

* * *

―Are you still okay?

―Yes. Thinking about it as the village of Pyrot Cocri makes sense.

―What do you mean?

―The types of undead I’ve never seen before. Some of them seem like I can’t even hit them.

Among the undead wandering between buildings, not only were there Dullahans, but also Death Knights.

Leeha had seen them being summoned and commanded by Faust, so they weren’t that surprising. However, the large number of spirit-type monsters similar to Phantoms was intriguing.

“Even though I completed my second job change, I still don’t have attack skills… I won’t be able to deal direct damage to those spirits.”

Among the floating entities, some were obviously spirits, with faint gray or translucent black appearances, but there were also monsters wearing hats deeply pulled over their faces, riding brooms.

“Kihehehe.”

‘Isn’t that just a witch, not an undead?’

Leeha could only think that way, as he had not seen their true form, cloaked by magic.

Besides the spirit-type and airborne monsters, there were many other peculiar monsters.

Especially notable were the ones wandering around in white shrouds with their hair down, and male monsters following at a certain distance, giving off an oddly familiar vibe.


‘Could it be a maiden ghost and a bachelor ghost? There are things that look like Jiangshi too… This seems like it’s gathered all ghosts from the East and West.’

Leeha shook his head and refocused.

There was no time to be distracted by the surroundings.

The citadel was less than 100 meters away now, and if there were guards like in the royal palaces of other nations, it would be difficult to advance from here.

“Kakakakak.”

Leeha deliberately made a skeletal noise as he looked around. To his relief, the surroundings of the citadel were empty.

This was in stark contrast to the countless undead he had seen walking on the main road and around buildings.

―No enemies around the citadel, I’m going in.

―Be careful, they might be hiding.

―I confirmed it with 〈Distorted Vision〉. Don’t worry.

Nothing could hide from his passive skill.

Although sudden attacks from underground were a common pattern in cemetery hunting grounds, Leeha would not fall victim to those.

―There’s a grand emblem at the entrance. Just to be safe, please check again. It’s a huge heart with a slightly stretched X on the sides.

―Yes, it is. It symbolizes the confidence of controlling all undead. It’s like manipulating toys they love with their hands.

―The X?

―Precisely it’s the handle of a marionette. Do you see the thin lines extending from the ends of the X?

―Ah…

Were the thin lines, which he had thought were mere scratches, representing strings?

Leeha nodded in understanding as Blaugrunn explained.

Passing through the citadel’s gate, a splendid space unfolded. Leeha hesitated for a moment when he saw the interior, decorated like a luxury hotel lobby.


―Still no one inside. There are plenty of paths; where should I go? Where would Pyrot Cocri like to be?

―The most splendid place. The highest place. He likes to stand out. He wouldn’t be hiding in the basement.

“Okay.”

Ha Leeha recalled the exterior of the fortress.

The castle, balanced on both sides, certainly had its highest point at the center.

‘This is quite straightforward. No, building such a fortress in the middle of the city itself means they must like to stand out.’

It was different from Bathory, which would have been hard to find without the advance party. Ha Leeha climbed up, up along the central staircase.

– Blaugrunn-ssi.

– Yes?

– If I die here, will I become undead?

– Wh-what an unlucky thing to say?

– No, just in case. There were those kinds of records in the Pyrot Cocri’s writings.

During the 2nd Human-Demon War, the main forces of the Demon King’s army consisted of three components.

Giant entities that pushed forward with sheer force from the front.

The combination of Baron Bluebeard’s army and the vanguard led by Toon’s presence instilled fear in the United Human Alliance just at the sight of them.

‘And the second was the unknown monsters. The Chimera Legion, whose weaknesses were nearly impossible to find.’

The Chimeras created by Gibrid were of unpredictable forms.

Things that couldn’t fly, flew; things that couldn’t cross rivers, crossed; and dead things exploded, causing acid rain around their surroundings—the records of which Ha Leeha had clearly read.

‘These two were still better. At least they revealed themselves clearly in visible places.’

What troubled the United Human Alliance the most was none other than Pyrot Cocri’s forces.


The summoned undead mostly moved with Bluebeard’s army, but what really troubled the United Human Alliance wasn’t that.

‘It was that past heroes were resurrected.’

Outstanding heroes who had shone in wars before the 2nd Human-Demon War.

Strategists, generals, assassins—those who made names for themselves in various fields—rose from their graves, which was the biggest problem.

Because of this, individuals who became ‘Heroes’ during the 2nd Human-Demon War reportedly screamed in delight.

Who were the ones they studied, analyzed, and took as their role models in strategy and martial arts?

They were the entities who existed before them in Middle Earth’s timeline.

In other words, they had the chance to fight their role models.

‘Since they rose from the ‘Graves’ located at the center of each nation’s territory, and because their supporting army wasn’t very large, it could be blocked. It was an infiltration operation with insufficient forces, so naturally, the undead were at a disadvantage, allowing them to be stopped.’

Simultaneously occurring and failing to unite, numerous undead heroes who couldn’t join the Demon King’s army died.

Had the past heroes revived as undead directly commanded Bluebeard’s giant monster troops or roamed with Bathory’s vampire legion for assassination, or carried out a charge attack aboard a Gibrid’s Chimera legion?

‘A few of the undead heroes who survived immediate extermination from the graves had actually carried out such operations, leading to… a miserable struggle. Even though only about thirty of the revived past heroes managed to survive.’

Because of those mere thirty out of hundreds and thousands of revived heroes, Pyrot Cocri’s legion was recognized as one of the main forces of the Demon King’s Fragment.

– If I become undead… the situation wouldn’t be just serious.

– If it were any human other than Ha Leeha speaking like this, I would’ve laughed it off. But… indeed, it is.

Having already experienced the ‘Rugermon’ incident, he could understand.

But turning into a Chimera means only a ‘single’ trait would combine.

What would it mean to be revived as an undead?

It meant literally becoming an enemy while retaining the entirety of his past power.

‘If I could use the remaining skills except for a few that need a partner… it would be insane.’

Ha Leeha calculated his current maximum effective range as he climbed the stairs.

If combined with a Chimera, the only skill usable would be ‘Snipe’.

However, if he turned into an undead and became an enemy, his items would remain the same as now, and he could use ‘Joint Fixation’ upper and lower halves.

‘The basic maximum range of Black Bass is about 4,000m. If I multiply it by 1.4 with Snipe, 1.25 with upper Joint Fixation, and 1.3 with lower—’

Ha Leeha expressed his astonishment with a “Kat!” sound.

Even during such a moment, he felt proud of himself for imitating the skeleton’s voice.

‘Maximum range of 9,100m? This is insane— No, I should be thankful. Although I can read wind direction/speed, I don’t ignore them, so it won’t extend to the maximum range. Considering some energy loss of the bullet at maximum range, it would be a bit shorter than that.’

It would be shorter should only be about 8,000m.

– A sniper shooting from around 8 km away? That’s hardly even a sniper shot anymore; it’s almost absurd.

It was a distance that Ha Leeha couldn’t even fathom how to observe or shoot from.

‘That absolutely cannot happen.’

It would be good to kill Pyrot Cocri or strengthen the seal, but Ha Leeha decided that his top priority would be ensuring he didn’t become undead.

As if responding to his resolve, Ha Leeha finally arrived at the topmost floor.

― Top floor reached. A splendidly decorated door can be seen.

― It has been reported to the Lord. Contact immediately upon discovering Pyrot Cocri. Do not be surprised. Use the time to contact us instead of being astonished.

― Of course.

Ha Leeha opened the door. The space, which occupied the entire top floor, was vast.

There was no leisure to appreciate the lavish interior decorations.

What immediately seized his attention was the gigantic, bright red crystal before his eyes and the pitch-black wall arranged around it as if to swallow the crystal.

Unlike the other three walls, the black one drew his eyes for a moment, but Ha Leeha focused his gaze on the crystal in front of him.

What was in the crystal ball? If Pyrot Cocri was there, he needed to whisper immediately!

Ha Leeha took a step forward.

“Who are you? Who dares to communicate with dragons?”

As soon as the girl’s voice resonated, a lavender light flashed from beside Ha Leeha.

Abnormal Status: Space Constriction (enhanced). All spatial movement within the radius is restricted for 15 minutes.

Abnormal Status: Communication Disruption (enhanced). All group chats, including whispers, are forbidden for 15 minutes.

Ha Leeha was bewildered in many ways.

* * *

“Then we will depart immediately tomorrow.”

“This is the matter the Pope is most concerned about. We look forward to your success, Browless.”

At the headquarters of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉, a secret operations meeting was in progress with Browless, ewin, and other key NPCs and players.

It had been made known to Ha Leeha that the entire 〈Sacred Alliance〉 personnel was searching the western part of the new continent.

That was indeed true.

Ram Hwayeon, who allied with paleo, and even all the users belonging to the Special Forces and various Knight Orders including Shin Nara and Lark, were spending their time in the west of the new continent.

“However, it is impossible with just my efforts. If Commander Ewin of 〈Sacred Alliance〉 does not attract attention, they will immediately catch on.”

Nevertheless, it was only a ‘deception.’

“Playing the role of the defeated is my specialty. Didn’t I pull off the role magnificently against Granville in the previous national war? Hahaha!”

‘Fox of the Prairie’ Ewin immediately caught the meaning behind Browless’s words.

“But since the opponent is who they are, I won’t show a single gap.”

“I have no doubts about it.”

Browless nodded with trusting eyes.

“A feint to the east, striking from the west.”

Ewin refined the strategy with a satisfied expression.

They would create the pretense of concentrating all their forces in the west, while a small team would target the east of the new continent.

If they aimed at the east from the beginning, the Demon King’s military strength would also head that way, making this inevitably a necessary strategy right from the start of the operation.

“We’re finally going. Though it’s annoying to go with you, Alexander.”

“The direction is the same, but the purpose is different. Don’t forget that, Luger.”

“… It’s unseemly to bicker before we even start.”

“I agree with Kidd-ssi on that point.”

The chosen ones for this journey included Luger, Kidd, who would track Kaztor with Browless, and Alexander, and Lee Jiwon, who would gather information about 〈Laputa〉 in the eastern new continent with Browless.

“Why do I feel uneasy yet somewhat reassured… Haha, it feels like we’d have the perfect team if Ha Leeha-ssi were with us.”

And Fernand.

When the player assigned as a guide with Browless uneasily laughed, Luger scoffed and gripped his cobalt-blue python.
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“Leeha? What do we need that idiot for? I don’t need someone weaker than me.”

“… I thought you were stupid, but you have a smart side, Luger.”

“What?”

“In other words, you’re admitting that everyone here participating in this eastern search is superior to you, Luger.”

Luger, brimming with confidence after his second job change, stepped forward, but he couldn’t handle Kidd, who was seasoned in dealing with him.

“That, that’s not what I meant!”

“Haha, let’s leave it at that. It’s true that having Leeha-ssi around would be helpful, but if he’s busy with other pressing matters, there’s nothing we can do.”

“Pressing matters, my foot. Do you even know where he is right― Huh?!”

Browless stopped the jumping Luger.

Luger, grumbling, instinctively opened the teleportation window of the Three Musketeers.

Watching Luger’s suddenly changing expression, Kidd tilted his head in curiosity.

“What’s going on―”

“Kidd! Teleport!”

Shuaaa…!

Luger immediately used the Three Musketeers’ teleportation.

“―with―”

Even without fully understanding the situation, Kidd of 〈Rapid Fire〉 was not left behind. He quickly opened the teleportation window of the Three Musketeers.

And he confirmed Leeha’s location.

Shazrashian’s north―Under the Cold Wind Mountain Range―Peklo City―Abyssal Maw

Teleporting, Kidd made his guess.


Luger knew what the ‘Abyssal Maw’ meant. But if Kidd’s assumption was correct, what kind of scene would they witness right after the teleportation ended?

Shuaaa…!

A lavender light flashed beside Leeha.

Abnormal Status: Spatial Restraint (Enhanced) has been applied. All space movement within the area is restricted for 15 minutes.

Abnormal Status: Communication Disruption (Enhanced) has been applied. All group chatting, including whispers, is prohibited for 15 minutes.

“A Demon King’s Fragment!”

“What are you doing alone? Why on earth are you in a skeleton’s form?”

It was no wonder Leeha looked alarmed for ‘various reasons’.

“… Luger? Kidd?”

Leeha quickly took off the spy Kojobu’s glasses and looked at the bright red crystal and the girl standing in front of it.

There was something in the crystal ball. So who was that girl, and what was she?

And how did the Three Musketeers get here?

‘Ah, I must have activated it when I saw Kaztor from the center of the Dawn Sea?!’

Leeha realized he had turned on the teleportation to call everyone when he discovered Kaztor at the center of the Dawn Sea.

Should he feel reassured or like he was holding a bomb?

“Who are you guys? How― No, were you just 0.1 seconds faster? Eek! What surprising friendship!?”

At least, it was certain that the smiling girl watching Leeha, Luger, and Kidd was not an ordinary person.

* * *

“The third Demon King’s Fragment, huh. I won’t go easy on you just because you’re a child.”

“No need to be deceived by appearances. Leeha, are you ready?”


Luger and Kidd approached Leeha. Leeha, too, before they knew it, inserted the magazine and aimed the Black Bass.

‘Similar build to Ram Hwajung― but a completely different atmosphere.’

Her long, braided hair, an abnormally pale face, and lips painted with thick eye makeup and black lipstick.

If Ram Hwajung had the image of a pale blue fairy, Leeha thought that Pyrot Cocri resembled a little witch.

“No need to align our moves. Just keep them in check so I’m not attacked. 〈Acht-Acht―〉”

“Wait a minute! Wait a minute, Luger!”

Luger was about to attack Pyrot Cocri using his skill, but Leeha felt a sense of doubt for some reason.

“Hee-hee! Why are you stopping? Go ahead and attack!”

Pyrot Cocri had not been flustered at all by the sudden appearance of the three musketeers.

Was her smiling and inviting them to attack simply due to confidence?

‘She knew that I was in contact with Blaugrunn, and that crystal ball too!’

Leeha’s eyes quickly swept over the crystal ball.

Had Kidd and Luger also read the situation? They stopped growling for a moment and stared at the crystal ball.

Pyrot Cocri read the looks in the three musketeers’ eyes as they glanced between her and the crystal ball.

Blocking Luger’s attack, she looked at Leeha, who was staring at the crystal ball, with surprise.

“You’re quite smart, huh? Yeah, yeah, I don’t mind smart oppas. That yellow-haired oppa of yours is totally useless, though.”

“A monster set with a few thousand years of experience talking like a kid-”

“Wait! Don’t attack!”

Leeha stopped Luger, who had once again prepared to attack, one more time.

She was luring them into attacking. Why?


“Why are you stopping me, you idiot! We have to kill it before its ‘main body’ awakens. Even a half-hearted attack would just wake up its main body anyway!”

“What?”

“So, I have to use my new technique and wipe it out in one go!”

Luger growled at Leeha, causing Pyrot Cocri’s expression to change once again.

“Wow, even the yellow-haired oppa isn’t completely ignorant? How did he know that? Have you woken up Grandpa Le or Ghibrid-oppa before!?”

“Grrr—”

Luger bit his lip but had nothing to say even if he had ten mouths.

Pyrot Cocri was exactly right, and at that moment, Kidd figured out the entire situation.

“…I see. A half-hearted attack back then only served to provoke the sleeping Bluebeard.”

“Even if it wasn’t me, someone would’ve woken it up eventually! Think about the levels, skills, and classes of the users at that time!”

“So, she’s luring us into attacking! That’s what she’s doing now!”

The strange sense of discomfort Pyrot Cocri had shown stemmed from that.

However, that alone didn’t provide a satisfying answer.

If she was luring them into attacking, there’d been no need for idle chatter. She could have just let them attack her first.

‘She wouldn’t have needed to mention that she knew I was in contact with Blaugrunn either.’

Pyrot Cocri’s true main body was still sleeping inside the crystal ball.

However, the clone outside, at least in mind and spirit, seemed to be enjoying the situation.

Like a child who had found a new toy, the little witch smiled and said, “Wanna play with me?”

“What?”

Play with her? In this situation, suddenly this…?

The Demon King’s Fragments inherently held systemic advantages on Middle Earth.

Just like Bluebeard, Pyrot Cocri could likely see the opponent’s level and stats.

‘Is she confident? Even though those three had completed their second job changes. I may not have any attack skills, but Luger and Kidd are different, aren’t they?’

Leeha couldn’t comprehend the intentions of this third Demon King’s Fragment.

That was until Kidd glanced at the walls around them.

“There is an undead presence. A number that’s hard to estimate.”

“…Was that her plan?”

Had Pyrot Cocri’s aim been to surround and attack them using the numerous undead Leeha had seen while coming here?

Pyrot Cocri shook her head firmly as she listened to Leeha’s words.

“Nope, nope~? I mean it literally, let’s play. My absolute favorite is themed games.”

Then she extended her fingers. The girl formed a V.

“Themed…”

“Games…?”

The three musketeers looked at each other briefly.

As soon as Luger and Kidd had arrived, teleportation and whispering had been completely blocked.

* * *

“Unlike Grandpa Le, I absolutely hate bothersome things. Playing here is the best. But if you touch my main body… I’ll wake up. You know what that means, right?”

Pyrot Cocri trailed off as if presenting a riddle.

All three of them quickly grasped the hidden meaning.

“Does it mean Bluebeard will notice the moment it awakens?”

“Ding-dong-deng! Ten points to the oppa with the hat! So, we’ll inevitably have to fight, right? Above all… I overheard that black-haired oppa talking to a dragon. I hate Grandpa Le, but I despise that old Bahamut even more. If that geezer Bahamut finds out about this place, I’d be so sad.”

Pyrot Cocri hugged herself and made a pitiful face.

Of course, Leeha was utterly dumbfounded.

This whispering ability did not just mean overhearing. It meant knowing exactly ‘who’ and ‘what’ was being said.

“Even if Bahamut geezer comes, he can’t kill me. The moment my original body awakens, the ‘Abyssal Maw’ will connect. Tee-hee, Grandpa Le’s is in the center of this continent, and Ghibrid oppa’s is on the mainland across the sea, so I can just go straight to Ghibrid oppa’s house.”

Pyrot Cocri said an astonishing thing as if it were nothing.

It was natural for the Three Musketeers to be surprised.

“What!?”

“What― what?”

“……Are you saying it has warp functionality?”

She gave them a faint smile as she observed their reactions.

The Three Musketeers didn’t know how to react to her behavior, which seemed almost as if she wanted to share this information intentionally.

– Have you heard, Kidd? That the Abyssal Maw has warp functionality?

– You are the only one who has actually faced it.

– Wait a minute! I think I’ve heard something about it being closed. Maybe when Ram Hwajung did her second job transfer, the Silver Dragon mentioned it.

They tried conversing with eye signals, but no answers came out.

Pyrot Cocri spoke with a voice that enjoyed the situation.

“So even if my original body awakens and we summon the Bahamut geezer, my place would just turn into a mess, but I wouldn’t die. Tee-hee! Here comes the second option!”

First option: Fight.

And considering her excessive explanation of what would happen if they chose the first option, it was easy to guess what the second option would entail.

“Leave quietly and keep this place a secret. Especially the black-haired oppa who came in first. If you tell the dragon about this place, Bahamut geezer will come, and I’ll awaken my original body and escape. Tee-hee! You three might survive for a brief moment, but… do you really want that?”

Pyrot Cocri spun around in place, acting cute.

It was a threat entirely unfit for her cute appearance, bright voice, and playful gestures.

It was like saying if they revealed this location, the Demon King’s Fragments would all awaken.

‘She’s provoking us into attacking. Or perhaps that initial provocation was a ploy to sow doubt…’

Leeha thought.

From Pyrot Cocri’s first actions to her way of speaking, everything pointed in one direction.

“……Indeed, this must be what they mean by marionette. It pretends there are two choices, but in reality, it’s forcing us to choose not to fight. As if she herself wants to avoid the fight.”

Pyrot Cocri laughed at Leeha’s words.

She neither confirmed nor denied it.

“Hyung, oppa, do you want to be my toy? I’ll keep your mind intact! Yes, yes. I think you’d make the best toy.”

However, her acknowledgment of Leeha’s insight signified agreement.

Luger and Kidd quickly understood it as well.

Given all she had said, Pyrot Cocri didn’t want to fight.

If viewed from another angle?

What if her reasons weren’t true, and there was another reason she was avoiding the fight?

‘Is it because she fears Bahamut, the Platinum Dragon…?’

‘It could all be a lie about the Abyssal Maw having warp functionality. She’s afraid of having her retreat cut off.’

‘Or perhaps her clone has no power at all. If she saw the possibility of being annihilated by our attack rather than awakening, that response would make sense.’

Leeha, Luger, and Kidd each considered the possibilities.

Even one or all of these possibilities were reasonable assumptions.

But what if they were wrong?

If by any chance their guesses were wrong and Pyrot Cocri’s reasons were true?

“All three of us would become her toys. You guys have browsed the royal archives while doing Three Musketeers Quests, right?”

Leeha looked at Kidd and Luger as he spoke.

There was no way they hadn’t seen the records he had read.

“〈Lugermon〉 wouldn’t even stand a chance.”

“Don’t insult Lugermon!”

Luger alone as a Manticore was already challenging.

What if the Three Musketeers, all of whom had undergone their second job transfers, became undead? It would be hell on earth.

They had to choose.

Determine which was the trap and which was the truth.
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“Kee-hee-heet, isn’t it fun!? The phrase ‘Yeah, I’ve decided!’ determines the fate of the oppas! Life always wants just one choice, one theme, because even if the meaning is similar, it’s much more colorful than undead!”

“Damn it, this sounds like an old TV show….”

A grinding noise came from Ha Leeha’s teeth.

As a Demon King’s Fragment, adept at controlling and manipulating people, it was indeed of a high level.

Ha Leeha calmly yet quickly assessed his situation. Surprisingly, the answer came easily.

What was the current quest he received, and what were the clear conditions for that quest?

‘……I need to reveal the location and identity of this place to Gerda, the highest-ranking Ice Spirit.’

There was also a possibility of the King of Ice and Snow appearing.

If that happened?

The main body of Pyrot Cocri would awaken anyway, wouldn’t it?

While Ha Leeha was lost in thought, Kidd and Luger were staring at a bright red crystal.

They were thinking in a different direction.

“Luger, when you woke up Bluebeard… you shot at him while he was still in the crystal ball, didn’t you?”

“Yeah. Damn thing wouldn’t break, but after a few more shots, it woke up.”

“In that case… how about this.”

Kidd motioned with his eyes.

Luger’s expression changed briefly.

“Ke-ke-ke… Isn’t that good? It’s avoiding a fight. The Demon King’s Fragment is avoiding a fight, it smells fishy.”

Luger’s laughter brought Ha Leeha back to his senses.

“Smell?”


“The smell of a liar who wants to control everything his way.”

Kidd through his mind, Ha Leeha through the situation, and Luger through instinct.

Although their directions differed, the three shared similar thoughts.

Ha Leeha spoke.

“The initial act of provoking an attack was a psychological tactic. Mentioning the dragon on purpose to restrict our actions.”

Kidd added.

“Luger called you a liar, but I don’t think you lied. You just didn’t tell the truth. The abundant number of undead around us is solid proof of that.”

Luger said.

“Ke-ke-ke… Hey, little witch. You can’t touch the crystal ball on your own, so you’re forcing us to choose to run away. Because!”

The three spoke in unison.

If we attack you without touching the crystal ball, we don’t know how the situation will unfold!

“〈Acht―Acht〉! Protect me first!”

“You crazy guy! In such a confined space, what are you going to do with an anti-aircraft gun―”

“I’ll go first.”

The moment Luger’s Cobalt Blue Python emitted a brilliant blue light, Kidd’s figure vanished.

Pyrot Cocri’s duplicate was glaring at the three with a twisted face.

“Zero points, zero points! All you oppas are―”

By then, Kidd was already behind Pyrot Cocri. Both his hands burst into flames simultaneously.

───, ───, ───!

The external appearance of the monster did not matter.


Even if it looked like a little girl half his size, Kidd could fire bullets without hesitation.

As a result, the head, chest, and stomach of Pyrot Cocri, in the form of a little girl, were pierced by Kidd’s attack.

“What the hell, is it dead?”

Luger asked, looking bewildered.

Pyrot Cocri’s duplicate was collapsing into bone dust. However, Ha Leeha and Kidd opposed that notion.

“No, it can’t be this easy. 〈Eighteen Panning〉.”

“To the left! In front of the crystal ball!”

Through the ‘Distorted Vision’, Ha Leeha watched something stirring and moving through the air.

At Ha Leeha’s cry, Kidd immediately turned around.

──, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─……

Kidd began firing straight away.

The shorter and faster intervals between gunshots echoed throughout the fortress.

“Waaak! Kidd! We’re over here in this direction! And be careful of the crystal, the crystal!”

Ha Leeha shouted, pointing at the crystal.

Though it was impressive that Kidd could create a web of fire on his own, there were conditions that had to be adhered to.

The primary condition when fighting Pyrot Cocri’s duplicate: do not provoke the bright red crystal.

“Ha ha, are you trying to tickle her, Kidd? When you attack, make it fiery!”

“Didn’t I tell you not to hit the crystal!?”

“Do you think I’d actually hit it, Ha Leeha! Hrrrrmph!”

Despite the name “anti-aircraft gun”, he didn’t raise the angle at all.


Keeping the barrel almost horizontal, it seemed more like an anti-tank gun than an anti-aircraft gun.

What surprised Leeha was the thick layer of mana surrounding the 〈Cobalt Blue Python〉.

‘Acht-Acht… It looks almost exactly like the photos from the World War II books!’

He had seen it once through a video recorded by Kijung.

Even though he thought he understood it through zoom-in, the impact was completely different in person.

Click, ssssssshhhh─!

‘But—will that kind of weapon work without a stand?’

Among the anti-aircraft guns, only the barrel appeared to cover the Cobalt Blue Python.

Luger was holding and supporting the enormous weight and gigantic barrel with just his two arms.

The protruding veins and tendons on his forehead, and the expanding muscles of his calves and thighs, were the only evidence of the extreme effort Luger was putting in to maintain this posture.

“Khhhhh… I just want to quickly show the power of the 〈Cannoneer〉 to Bluebeard!”

───────────────!

“Aaaargh!”

The vibration and blast were so intense that it shook not just their ears but their skulls inside the fortress.

『Myoing!』

It was so loud that Jellypong had to cover Leeha’s ears.

“Kidd, K-Kidd—”

“…If you do that again without warning, Luger, I will aim for your head next.”

Kidd, who had been using the 〈Eighteen Panning〉 skill from behind the Pyrot Cocri, walked around Luger with a dumbfounded expression.

‘Fast. 『Rapid Fire』 should be done with the feet. This is faster than Colonel Browless when we hunted the troll.’

Of course, at that time, browylis was not using his full power.

But Leeha could tell that Kidd had definitely surpassed that level now.

“Heh, if I had given a warning, would that thing have been hit? Think, Kidd.”

Luger panted and laughed.

Even Leeha could instantly tell how powerful that single shot was.

Luger had aimed not at the ‘black wall’ behind the crystal ball, but at an oblique direction.

In other words, he had aimed at a place that used to have a regular wall, not the abyss.

Kidd wasn’t the only one who had grown with a secondary job change.

Swoooosh…

A wind blew through.

‘It’s not an explosion. One side of the wall is… 『Penetrated』. It pierced through!’

More than half of the wall got destroyed and vanished.

It wasn’t just about making a hole; it literally blew the whole thing away.

Given such enormous destructive power, it seemed like rapid fire would be difficult.

Leeha felt that not much had changed from what he had seen in Kijung’s video to what Luger was doing now.

‘The interval after each shot is extremely long. That must be the difference.’

Leeha pulled the bolt and loaded another bullet.

Kidd and Luger scanned their surroundings.

Where did Pyrot Cocri go?

The two, sharing the same thought, were on guard.

Ka-boom────!

Leeha had fired another shot.

“What are you doing, not shooting? Aren’t you going to catch Pyrot Cocri?”

Kidd and Luger looked in the direction Leeha fired, visibly shocked.

“Wh-what? Where did he shoot?”

They couldn’t see anything.

“It wasn’t a coincidence that it revealed Pyrot Cocri’s position… No, it had to be that way. His 『Accuracy』 must have improved too, so it had to be that way.”

However, Kidd understood what Leeha was seeing.

Leeha’s eyes perfectly captured the mana flow of Pyrot Cocri’s movements, appearing clearly in his vision.

“〈Soul Link〉, Jellypong! Merge with Koma and protect the crystal! Prepare for unexpected situations!”

“Grrooww-myoing!”

With a somewhat feeble reply, the merged kid and Jellypong rushed out.

It seemed correct that Pyrot Cocri couldn’t awaken its main body by touching the crystal on its own.

‘Just judging by its movements. It’s circling around the crystal or loitering in front of it—’

Leeha moved sideways, changing the angle of his shot.

He aimed to ensure that the bullet he fired would pierce through Pyrot Cocri without hitting the crystal.

Baaang────────…!

‘―Never touch the gem on your own.’

The chest of the forming Pyrot Cocri crumbled into powder with a crackling sound.

“Oppa, seriously! Are you going to do it this way!?”

The issue was how to kill it.

Even when it was hit by Kidd’s rapid-fire, or startled by the surprise attack and hastily dodging only to be blown away by Luger, or even when caught by Leeha’s ‘eye’ and unable to restore its body, turning into powder…

“Keke, is it immortal?”

“It shouldn’t be a spirit, and is it another ‘Vitality Jar’?”

“No, that can’t be. We must realize that the other side is a ‘clone’.”

It should be killable.

At the very least, there must be a sure way to annihilate the clone. Kidd spoke with a certain degree of confidence.

Leeha and Luger trusted the words of the ‘head’ of the Three Musketeers completely.

“Alright, forward―3, 2, 1, the cooldown of 〈Bayonet Charge〉 is over!”

“Indeed. Understood.”

“What― what?”

With Luger’s unintelligible shout, Kidd’s figure vanished once again.

If it’s immortal, they decided to beat it until it died, and Luger and Kidd unleashed attacks full of determination.

“Wait a minute! What cooldown for 〈Bayonet Charge〉?”

Only Leeha admired their firepower, looking around. How could they possibly capture that thing?

* * *

“How dare you treat me like that~? 〈Puppet―”

Bang──────…!

“―You should let me finish talking! Playing together makes it fun!”

Bang──────…!

“Ridiculous.”

Kidd once again caught Pyrot Cocri from behind.

Even though it’s a clone, to catch the back of Demon King’s Fragment so easily!

‘In terms of speed alone, as fast as Nara-ssi? No, now I can’t even predict its movements!’

Pyrot Cocri turned in a small semi-circle.

Kidd turned in a larger semi-circle behind her.

Nevertheless, Leeha felt that Kidd seemed ‘a bit faster’.

‘Turning outside but faster than inside? Pfft, this guy isn’t an Outsider for nothing!’

How could one possibly win when the enemy’s movements were predicted and Kidd seized their back effortlessly?

Leeha watched Kidd’s movements with a helpless laugh.

With every shot from Crimson Geckos, Pyrot Cocri’s body was destroyed piece by piece.

It seemed that Pyrot Cocri couldn’t shake off Kidd, who clung like a fly, no matter the evasive movements tried.

Even with a slightly violent movement, or just moving a bit away from the range of the gem…

Baaang──────────

Luger’s bombardment poured in.

“Kahahah! Is it fun, kid!? Will you still say it’s fun!?”

The Queen of the Undead, half of her left side completely obliterated, frowned deeply. She immediately started charging at Luger.

“That’s not fun. I find controlling fun, not being controlled―”

Baaang────────…!

“Where do you think you’re going? And we’re having fun here.”

Of course, at that close range, Leeha could block it sufficiently.

He couldn’t seize Pyrot Cocri’s ‘back’, but a sniper doesn’t need to.

Just aim for the middle of the enemy’s forehead.

Pyrot Cocri’s nose and bridge disintegrated into bone dust.

Kidd appeared through that dust again, stuffing bullets into Pyrot Cocri’s body.

Bang, bang, bang!

Kidd kicked the body of Pyrot Cocri, turning into powder, and stood next to Luger and Leeha.

Watching Luger fire another shot into that powder, Leeha pondered, ‘As expected, he’s a hunter.’

and reflected, ‘I should play more ruthlessly like him.’

The battle didn’t last long.

“Oppas…… Leave me―”

The Three Musketeers’ assault suppressed, controlled, and finally defeated Pyrot Cocri’s attacks and movements.

“Phew… That was manageable.”

“Since the body is small, it’s easy to blow away.”

“Never let your guard down.”
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Pashashasha…

The fallen body of Pyrot Cocri scattered. This time, there were no signs of regeneration.

‘The flow of mana itself has been cut off. This time, it won’t regenerate elsewhere either.’

Unlike Kidd and Luger, who were on high alert, Leeha could confirm it visually as well. The movement of the bone powder, which had been regenerating continuously, had completely stopped.

After confirming for about ten more seconds that the incarnation of Pyrot Cocri had come to an end, the trio began to move.

“She does die, after all. But how did you get here?”

“Did you think we would just let you go wild in the ‘Abyssal Maw’ alone?”

“My location wouldn’t have shown up until just before I came in… Did you see that in such a short time?”

As Leeha looked flustered, Luger snorted.

Kidd walked ahead of them towards the bright red crystal and opened his mouth.

“Hmm… But it’s quite disappointing that you didn’t say anything.”

“Di-disappointing! What—since when have we been such close allies?”

“If we hadn’t come, you would have died, Ha Leeha.”

“Oh, please. I completed my second job change too, you know? In fact, I was probably the first.”

Indeed, Kidd’s actions had been helpful. However, Leeha could have handled it on his own as well, couldn’t he?

The synthetic creature, Jellypong, and Koma was breathing heavily. Even if not as easily, with their help, there would definitely have been a chance of victory.

“Haha, you’re such a blockhead. I completed my second job change first. I remember the exact time, minute, and second.”

“I must have completed it an hour before you.”

“Are you still fighting over that?”

“Don’t touch it! I found it, so I get to touch it first!”


While bickering with Luger, Leeha quickly went over to Kidd. Kidd reached towards the bright red crystal but flinched back.

However, Leeha couldn’t touch it either. Inside the crystal ball was the complete form of the just-defeated Pyrot Cocri, and he was afraid that touching it might awaken it.

“The exterior looks the same… To what extent was the level of that incarnation?”

“Like you, I didn’t even use a proper skill. That incarnation might not even have possessed 5% of the main body’s power”, Kidd replied to Leeha’s muttering.

Leeha almost asked Kidd if that was without using any skills, but Luger spoke first.

“Haha… You really know nothing, do you? 5%? It wasn’t even 1%. Maybe it was around 0.5% or 0.1%.”

Luger’s response was quite shocking not only to Leeha but also to Kidd.

“Do you have a basis for thinking that way?”

“When Ghibrid awoke, the Pope said it was around 10% power. With that much power, it could awaken by sheer force. But seeing it still asleep here, don’t you understand?”

“Then, could it have been around 5%?”

“You’re so clueless… Do you really think you could have handled half of Ghibrid’s power now?”

“Ugh…”

Among the trio, the only one who faced Ghibrid in direct combat was Luger. Luger was certain he couldn’t win even after exerting all his power against a recently awakened Ghibrid.

“There is some logic there. This time, only Luger’s skills among us in our second job change were properly used, plus the undead outside didn’t even budge—no, they didn’t move at all?”

As Kidd spoke, his expression changed. Leeha and Luger also realized.

What happened to the thousands of undead surrounding outside? Wasn’t there a Lich Dragon among them too?

The three approached the wall that Luger had smashed. From there, they should have been able to see the undead clearly.

Whiiiooo…

As they wondered why there was wind blowing underground, the trio had to rub their eyes in disbelief for a moment.

“Ooooobbaabababbabbababpabap!”


“Nananalanglanglanglang–”

“–Playplayplayplaywithme.”

The voices of the “Pyrot Cocri” echoed throughout the underground caverns. Luger gulped and hastily grabbed the crystal ball.

“13 seconds left until the cool-down of the bayonet charge.”

“So, why do you keep—Ah! Is that it?”

Finally, Leeha understood as he saw Kidd following Luger in pulling out a crystal ball.

Why did Luger keep mentioning the five-minute cooldown time for the bayonet charge? It referred to the remaining time until the spatial barrier would be lifted.

If they mentioned the exact time, the enemy could calculate it and successively set up more barriers, so they quantified the time in a way only they could understand.

“The term ‘0.1%’ suddenly struck me deeply. But how do we kill that thing?”

“That’s not what we need to worry about right now.”

Shuaa———!

The Pyrot Cocris flew straight towards the castle walls.

“Prepare yourself, damn it!”

“If you attack, the crystal ball teleport gets canceled! Stay put!”

Ha Leeha grabbed Luger’s arm as he was about to put the crystal ball away.

“Can’t you see? If we don’t fight now—”

“It’s fine. It won’t hit.”

Ha Leeha didn’t close his eyes even as the enemies approached right in front of him.

The time calculation was precise. He clearly saw the vibrations in the air caused by the enemies’ movements.

From the fingertips of the approaching Pyrot Cocri, a thin line stretched toward the three musketeers.


‘It won’t touch. 2 seconds, 1 second—’

Among the over 1,000 Pyrot Cocris flying through the air, Ha Leeha was the only one who remained calm.

──────…….

The third Demon King’s Fragment was indeed just playing around.

Despite having the ability to turn everything it created within its home into its clones.

“Oh dear, I miscalculated the time.”

As the three people vanished in a violet hue, the Pyrot Cocris expressed regret.

Chatting among themselves or whispering, they laughed.

“We need to get the toy we want, right?”

“Yeah, yeah, let’s get it, get it!”

The eyes of Pyrot Cocri in the blood-red crystal ball opened.

『Gather!』

At that moment, thousands of Pyrot Cocris reverted to their original undead forms and all crumbled to dust.

Throughout the underground cavern housing Peklo City, only one undead was left standing.

『Now, let’s see if they come back or… heheh.』

The Pyrot Cocri in the crystal ball closed its eyes again.

In front of the crystal, a ‘new’ Pyrot Cocri that had risen from the pile of disintegrated bone dust stood.

* * *

It was about five minutes later that Ha Leeha, Kidd, and Luger met again.

Since they had used crystal balls in different locations, they had to buy and use chain teleport scrolls to regroup.

Where they gathered was not right in front of the entrance.

Having met at the location where Ha Leeha used the crystal ball, they were looking at their surroundings in confusion.

“…What is that?”

“Oh, that’s a Shazra—Leeha Condor… haven’t you seen it before?”

“Why would you name a bald eagle after yourself? Sense of camaraderie?”

It was because four huge condors were flying in from the sky. Clearly, it was the first time seeing these monsters, which caused their confusion.

“Camaraderie? What nonsense are you spouting! I’m the first discoverer and killer! And you don’t know what an honor it is to have a creature named after you—”

In an instant when a horrifying scream and gunshot resounded, startling the giants nearby, all four condors were falling.

Blaugrunn nodded as he watched and then spoke.

“Do not mock Ha Leeha, humans.”

“No, I mean, this isn’t mocking, Blaugrunn! If you’re going to take my side, do it right!”

After a brief commotion, they finally discussed Pyrot Cocri.

The size and structure of Peklo City, what they saw inside, and the ability of Pyrot Cocri to turn all undead in Peklo City into its duplicates through the crystal ball.

Blaugrunn wore a serious expression.

“Peklo City is a space created by Pyrot Cocri, but it has a more famous nickname: Pyrot Cocri’s Belly.”

“Belly?”

“Yes. It means something akin to its internal body. I, too, had never visited Peklo City, so I thought it was just a metaphor, but from what Ha Leeha said, it seems like it can indeed treat it as an extension of its body.”

When in the crystal ball, it cannot use all of its abilities.

So how is it able to freely create clones?

Was this because the entire space was already under the control of Pyrot Cocri?

At least for Peklo City, this meant that Pyrot Cocri was awake and active.

“What a terribly horrifying story. Does this mean we need to seal off the entire space to perfect his seal?”

“That’s right.”

“Conversely, does that mean the numerous Pyrot Cocri cannot leave Peklo City?”

“I cannot be certain, human.”

Luger and Kidd each asked Blaugrunn their respective questions.

Ha Leeha chewed his lower lip and slung his Black Bass over his shoulder.

“The important thing is that we don’t have time. Blaugrunn, please go to the Lord and come back to me immediately. And you all—stay here and keep an eye on those giants.”

“What, what? Why should I—”

“You’re not going to be much help now anyway, are you? We’re not fighting Pyrot Cocri. From now on, I’m moving on my own.”

Ha Leeha took out his crystal ball.

The next location was, of course, where ‘Gerda’ was.

They initially teleported there without intending to take Luger and Kidd.

“…If you’re saying we’re of no help, we’ll head to the New Continent—”

“No, no. Thanks to me, you got to tour Peklo City. So, shouldn’t you do some work before going? Right?”

“Th-that’s a ridiculous thing to say—”

“Whatever! Anyway, those giants are almost done blowing up the tunnel. Just guard it until then. And you can hunt new mobs, gain experience points, and get items. It’s good, right? Then, I’m off!”

Ha Leeha, almost pushing them forcefully, left. Though Luger quickly took out his crystal ball, he couldn’t activate it at once.

“Damn it. I’ll definitely blow his head off someday.”

“You always say that but never do.”

“Should I blow your head off first, Kidd?”

“If you can aim that slow cannon at me for more than 0.1 seconds, feel free to try.”

“Ugh—! Dammit!”

He wanted to fight Pyrot Cocri. But he lacked the strength and ability beyond that.

Ignoring Ha Leeha’s words would mean losing any additional information from him, so he had no choice but to stay.

The complexity of their feelings came through in Luger’s shout and Kidd’s sigh.

* * *

“Gerda-nim!”

『Yes, I did recognize—huh!?』

Gerda, the top-grade spirit of ice and snow, revealed herself but was startled.

Ha Leeha could feel the immense energy surrounding him.

“Gerda, it’s been a long time.”

『B-Bahamut! How could the leader of the Metal Dragons be in a place like this…?』

Bahamut, with the face of a kind old man, greeted her. Gerda, while stepping back a bit, bowed to him.

“I have warnings for the Lord’s family and words to you, the spirit of ice and snow.”

Blaugrunn, standing tall beside Bahamut, flared his nostrils as he represented his Lord.

『If it’s the Lord’s family—』

“Ah, apologies for the late introduction. I’m Ha Leeha, known as the ‘White Reaper’, also a family of Bahamut.”

Ha Leeha beamed at Gerda.

Ha Leeha noticed that Gerda’s already pale face turned even paler.

‘Feeling guilty for daring to suggest she be a slave to Bahamut’s family, huh? Heh heh.’

Though it felt like their positions had reversed, now wasn’t the time to indulge in such trivial emotions.

In the presence of Lord Bahamut and the top-grade spirit of ice and snow, Ha Leeha shared everything he had seen, heard, and experienced.

The third Demon King’s Fragment, Pyrot Cocri, was there.

Though not yet awakened, city Fecklo was perfectly structured.

Touching the crystal ball would make the Demon King’s Fragments mutually recognizable and possibly warp immediately through the ‘Abyssal Maw’.

“Therefore, either eliminate her in one strike before she wakes…”

“Or seal off Peklo City itself.”

“Precisely, my Lord.”

Bahamut wore a serious expression. Gerda’s face was one of shock.

『P-Pyrot Cocri… The queen of all undead is there—that’s why the children…』

As Ha Leeha surmised, it was evidence that the habitat near the Cold Wind Mountain Range frequently had ice and snow spirits.
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“What should we do, Gerda? Maybe it’s best to inform Lumi.”

『Of course, Bahamut. I will inform the Spirit King immediately.』

“Wait a moment! Wouldn’t it be better to come up with a plan before acting? As I mentioned before, if we touch it recklessly, the main body of Pyrot Cocri might awaken—”

“It’s alright. It’s alright.”

“What?”

Bahamut interrupted the worried Ha Leeha. He then looked at Gerda and asked.

“Gerda, if it’s Lumi, would they be able to freeze all the underground spaces of what’s known as the Coldwind Mountain Range?”

Gerda, startled and surprised, showed a fierce expression upon hearing the question.

『You belittle the Spirit King with your words, leader of the metal dragon.』

“Your words are disrespectful to the Lord, top-grade spirit of snow and ice.”

Blaugrunn immediately countered the sharp remarks directed at Bahamut. Bahamut, however, just laughed heartily.

“Ha ha, it’s all right, Blaugrunn. I apologize if I upset you, Gerda.”

Ha Leeha instantly realized.

Bahamut had merely asked the question on behalf of Ha Leeha’s curiosity.

The Spirit Kings would demonstrate unimaginable power, and as Bahamut had said, there was no need to worry about it.

“I will join in as well. Rather than eliminating Pyrot Cocri immediately, it’s better to freeze all underground spaces and keep them under surveillance.”

“An extensive alarm magic, my Lord! As expected!”

Blaugrunn looked at Bahamut with excitement and admiration. Bahamut patted the spirited member of his race with a satisfied smile.

Ha Leeha tilted his head and asked.

“We’re not eliminating Pyrot Cocri?”


“Didn’t you mention it yourself? The moment you entered, it recognized your presence.”

“That’s… correct.”

“If Peklo City is perfectly implemented, I wouldn’t be able to approach it either. The moment you get close, it would notice.”

“But it hasn’t woken up yet—”

“No, that’s the trap. It hasn’t not woken up; it’s just not rising.”

“– What?”

Bahamut clicked his tongue.

It wasn’t directed at Ha Leeha.

The leader of the Metal Dragons gritted his teeth as he thought of Pyrot Cocri.

“Have you heard what it likes the most?”

“… Choices, right? Manipulating the opponent to do as it pleases—”

“Exactly. Blaugrunn told me. You communicated via messenger with Blaugrunn, and my story was included.”

“That’s correct.”

“Then it anticipated that you would summon me if you managed to get out.”

“Ah?!”

Ha Leeha made a face as if he had been struck.

Pyrot Cocri knew how to transform all the undead in Peklo City into its own form.

In that case, why didn’t it just launch a massive attack from the beginning? Why specifically deal with the trio?

‘The initial provocation was to make its opponents attack it. But that was a trap to force the choice of not fighting, and therefore we attacked it.’

It was confident because it knew as long as the crystal ball was untouched, it could be managed.


However, if even that was another twist in its complex trap?

“The moment I set foot in Peklo City, Pyrot Cocri would awaken by itself. And through the ‘Abyssal Maw’, suppose Le and Ghibrid come…?”

From Ha Leeha’s perspective, who had no idea where Bluebeard or Ghibrid were, and from Bahamut’s perspective, who couldn’t casually know other NPCs’ locations even as the highest-ranking AI, it was only natural to think cautiously like that.

“It was a trap. To lure the Lord…”

Blaugrunn looked impressed by the enemy’s cunning.

Ha Leeha was too stunned to say anything.

A monster that designs multi-layered psychological warfare and traps to capture Bahamut.

‘An enemy like Pyrot Cocri…requires thinking even beyond the battle with Chiyou.’

As all the pieces of the puzzle fit together, Ha Leeha felt his hair stand on end.

“Gerda, can you call Lumi now?”

『… Understood. But before that… Ha Leeha?』

“Yes!”

Ha Leeha responded urgently to the sudden call. The top-grade spirit of snow and ice approached Ha Leeha.

『To you, who pierced through the terror of the Undying Army… and finally accomplished the mission, I express my gratitude.』

“It’s nothing. I just did what I had to do.”

『This is a small gift I can offer in return.』

A dazzling light followed…

Ha Leeha saw the blue snowballs gathering around him and being absorbed into his body.

When the absorption of light ended, a fanfare resounded in Ha Leeha’s mind. Ba-ba-bam―!

『You have leveled up.』


『You have learned the skill ― Snow Storm.』

『You have acquired the achievement ― Spirits of Cold but Warm.』

‘Good! It’s finally over, only the last step remains!’

He didn’t even glance at the achievement or level. All that mattered to Ha Leeha was mastering the skill 〈Snow Storm〉!

He had already guessed that the next step would be 〈White Reaper〉, which only made him more anxious.

『See you at the entrance of the cave then.』

“Certainly.”

Gerda slowly began to disappear.

Ha Leeha also headed underground in the Cold Wind Mountain Range with Bahamut and Blaugrunn.

* * *

―How is it going, Ha Leeha?

―I’m continuously observing your movements, so if you deceive me even a little, I’ll kill you.

―Ah, just wait a bit. First, we’ve decided to freeze all the paths leading to Peklo City. So no one else can get in and wake them up, we’ll also set up a wide-area alarm spell.

“Freezing the path and setting up the alarm spell sounds good. If someone like you, Luger, steps forward and screws up, it would be a big problem.”

“What, what!? Who said I’d go in? Do I look that careless to you?”

Luger jumped up and down in anger, but Kidd shrugged it off.

“Hmm, but how does Ha Leeha plan to freeze everything? Although it’s known he’s related to Bahamut… Can a dragon really do that?”

“He’s not just any ordinary dragon. If he’s the leader of all metal dragons, he should be capable of that much.”

“Sss! But I have a feeling he’s hiding something. That guy always tries to do everything on his own.”

Luger’s nostrils flared as if sensing something instinctively. Even though Luger sensed something was amiss, Kidd was more interested in Ha Leeha’s current status.

“After all, he hasn’t even disclosed his second job yet. Investigating what skills Ha Leeha has learned is the priority.”

“Ha-ha, that’s the same for you. Kidd, what skill did you learn that allowed you to do ‘that’ without using the skill? To me, it sounded like you were discontent rather than showing off.”

Luger, probing if Kidd meant ‘unable to display new skills hence the dissatisfaction’, asked, and Kidd, looking displeased, pressed down on his hat.

“Ahem! Why don’t you worry about your 〈Cannoneer〉 instead.”

“I have nothing to hide! What’s the big deal in revealing everything! We can’t steal or cancel each other’s second job anyway, why hide it? You guys are just chicken-hearted―”

Ba-ba-bam―!

A fanfare resounded simultaneously in both of their minds, causing them to stop talking mid-sentence.

―Kidd! Luger! Did you also get the achievement notification? What is this?

“Damn……”

“Heh, h-haha…… Yes, this is fun; this is how it should be.”

『You have acquired the achievement: You are my Toys.』

『The two of them closely examined the new achievement that had just appeared.』

* * *

“What’s wrong, Ha Leeha-nim?”

Ha Leeha stared at the achievement window in front of him.

At the cave entrance of the Cold Wind Mountain Range, Gerda, and the Ice Spirit King, Lumi, were waiting for Ha Leeha and his group.

“No, it’s just… well… it still isn’t frozen yet, right?”

“What? The underground? Of course not. Lumi-nim has just emerged.”

As Blaugrunn tilted his head in confusion, Bahamut’s expression grew stern.

“…Is there a problem?”

“Yes, I believe… something has happened. We need to hurry! We need to seal the underground, quickly!”

Ha Leeha hurriedly ran towards the cave entrance.

Bahamut and Blaugrunn flew behind him.

At the cave entrance, Gerda and Lumi showed strange expressions as they saw Ha Leeha.

『Gerda?』

『Indeed, this is Ha Leeha, the one who discovered the existence of the Pyroth-Cocri and informed us―』

“Hurry! Hurry and block it, Pyrot Cocri is coming out!”

However, Ha Leeha had no time to acknowledge their pleased greetings.

『”No matter if you’re Ha Leeha, you should show respect! How dare you display such an attitude—”』

“Sorry, but I don’t have the time for elaborate words—please, Lumi-nim, Queen of Eyes and Ice!”

Ha Leeha couldn’t foresee what kind of penalty this might lead to, but he had to get straight to the point without beating around the bush.

『”It seems something urgent is happening. Very well. Bahamut, assist us.”』

If Gerda resembled a harsh and mature adult woman, Lumi looked more like a calm and gentle elder woman.

Lumi, the one who could be aptly described as the ‘Queen of Ice’, did not get angry with Ha Leeha, unlike Gerda.

“Haha, let’s do it, Lumi.”

Bahamut responded to Lumi as if addressing an old friend.

Despite having the leader of the Metal Dragons and a higher-tiered Spirit Queen in front of him, Ha Leeha did not even have time to marvel at them.

‘What on earth is happening!?’

〈Achievement: You are My Toy (S)〉

Impressive.

You have sparked the interest of one of the Demon King’s Fragments, Pyrot Cocri. While it may not be pleasant to congratulate you for capturing the attention of someone who kills all living things to turn them into undead, it does mean your outstanding abilities have been recognized.

Be cautious.

Even while sealed, she will pour all her strength to make you “her toy”.

All the undead in Peklo City will strive to find you.

To prevent the inevitable undeadification of yourself, here is a gift we can offer.

Reward: 25 Stat Points

Alarm function triggers if Pyrot Cocri’s avatar or any undead influenced by Pyrot Cocri is nearby.

(In case of death by the aforementioned entity, an undead monster with 120% of your death-time stats and skill grades will be created.)

You are the first registrant of the 〈You are My Toy〉 achievement.

Up to the third registrant, names will be recorded in the Hall of Fame and an additional 200% of the current effect will be applied.

Effect: 50 Stat Points

Despite gaining another S-grade achievement, Leeha could not be happy.

‘An alarm for Vampires, an alarm for Bluebeard, and now an alarm for anything related to Pyrot Cocri!? It’s not just a biological radar for the Demon King’s army, ahhh! What is this? Oh? But…’

Even in that moment, one phrase caught Ha Leeha’s eye.

‘You all?’

It was a situation that naturally elicited expletives. The phrase being plural meant…

—You are the second registrant.

—Damn it, all the undead of Peklo City will struggle to find me, not just Pyrot Cocri’s avatars?

Ha Leeha made a peculiar face as he listened to the whispers of Kidd and Luger.

—You guys achieved this too, huh? Should I be relieved about that, or be regretful about the stat points picked up?

Though he said that, there was hardly any jealousy about them catching the achievement as well. Ha Leeha was greatly relieved to share an achievement and a place in the Hall of Fame with his comrades.

—This isn’t the time to talk nonsense! What about freezing it? How did the freezing go?

—If we’re late, countless Pirate-Korkis will come pouring out. We must hurry, Ha Leeha!

Both of them urged Ha Leeha vigorously.

‘The moment I die to Pyrot Cocri—120% stats even upon death! Why does there have to be another penalty!’

Another version of himself with stats and skill levels 20% higher than what they were at the time of death?

‘Not a chance. If Undead Ha Leeha, Undead Kidd, and Undead Luger are created at the same time—’

Ha Leeha felt confident.

To defeat those three, it would be impossible with just the real three of them. If those undead ran rampant during the inaccessibility period after death penalties…

‘A decent twenty knight orders would vanish in one day.’

Therefore, sealing the cave entrance was of the utmost priority.

—Quickly block it, you… fool!

—Ah, it’s starting now! Luger, stop ranting! Will it help if you keep pushing?

Ha Leeha shouted at Luger and watched the magic of Lumi and Bahamut. Pure white mana particles endlessly poured into their bodies.

Blaugrunn and Gerda guarded the surroundings with serious expressions.

‘Peklo City’s underground is vast. But if they freeze the entire underground as it is!’

It wasn’t just about blocking the entrance with an ice wall. It meant filling the underground beneath the mountain range with ice.
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『Let’s go.』

“Certainly.”

Lumi and Bahamut exchanged light banter.

Swoosh───────────────!

“Wowaaaaa!?”

The moment mana burst forth from their bodies, Ha Leeha was sent flying.

『Mew, myomyo!』

Jellypong quickly planted its tentacles into the ground to withstand it.

In the blinding white light, Ha Leeha momentarily worried about Blaugrunn, but the Bronze Dragon had erected a barrier and was watching Bahamut steadfastly.

‘A mana collision strong enough for an adult-level dragon to need a barrier.’

In an instant, the cave turned stark white and was completely filled with ice.

Even the boundary that once marked the cave entrance had disappeared.

“Phew…”

Ha Leeha sighed in relief.

* * *

『Interesting, child favored by Elaim. I have heard Ifrit, Sylphid, and Noas talking about the World Tree.』

“Uh, ahem, thank you. And… I apologize for being rude when we first met.”

『If it weren’t for the Queen, I would have―』

『Let’s leave it at that, Gerda. There must have been reasons.』

『I understand.』


Gerda growled, almost as if she were about to whip Ha Leeha, but Lumi interceded.

『We shall meet again if the opportunity arises.』

“Yes. I look forward to it, Lumi-nim.”

『Myomyomyo─!』

While Ha Leeha and Lumi exchanged farewells, Jellypong, separated from Ha Leeha, cozied up to the Queen of Ice and Snow Spirits, showing affection.

『Yes, yes. It reminds me of Elaim’s childhood.』

It was a vastly different scene from when Gerda had seemed intimidating, and Ha Leeha watched with curiosity.

“I’ve set my alarm, but… if the ice breaks, will it alert you, Lumi?”

『Of course. We can’t let the Demon King’s Fragment run rampant.』

“Indeed. If you don’t mind, would you like to have some tea and chat? It’s been a while.”

Bahamut spoke to Lumi with a smile. Although Ha Leeha felt it was like witnessing a senior romance, Lumi demurely shook her head with a smile.

『You know very well that I cannot. Gerda, I must be going.』

『Yes. I’ll oversee the children’s growth here.』

『Do so.』

Lumi’s form slowly turned transparent and disappeared. Bahamut waved her goodbye.

Gerda then turned to Ha Leeha and spoke.

『Ha Leeha, if circumstances improve, can you visit us again?』

“Me? Me?”

『To prepare for the undead legion of Pyrot Cocri… your terror spirit could be very helpful. Also, for the children’s growth.』

“Oh? In that case, sure. Anytime.”


『Great. I’ll inform you of the location next time.』

“Yup!”

Besides learning about the conversation between Lumi and Gerda, Ha Leeha also realized that there was a place near the Northern Ridge where the ice and snow spirits lived collectively.

‘Maybe I can leverage this information to get something from Prea later?’

Although this thought involved using the information for his own gain (*cough* exploitation *cough*), it immediately sprang to his mind.

『Well then… Lord Bahamut. Thank you.』

“Don’t mention it. It’s reassuring to know you are protecting the North. I hope you continue to do well.”

Gerda bowed to Bahamut and, like Lumi, started to fade away gradually.

After the ice and snow spirits had all left, Bahamut also began dusting off the snow that clung to his attire.

“Is this settled?”

“It seems so. If Lord hadn’t come… Oh, just imagining it is horrible.”

As Ha Leeha jested, Bahamut laughed heartily.

Blaugrunn quickly joined in as well.

“Certainly. With Lord’s power, Pyrot Cocri is just—”

“No, Blaugrunn. Even if I can manage a Pierrot-Cocri alone, if Le and Gibryde start rampaging, it would be difficult for me.”

“Pardon?”

Bahamut was serious.

Ha Leeha thought that Bahamut’s words were not wrong.

‘When Bahamut comes to help me…’

It was only related to the Demon King’s Fragment. Why was that? Ha Leeha had pondered this question intensely for some time.


The conclusion he reached was, predictably, balance.

The choices and flow were left in the hands of the user in the game. However, maintaining balance was essential within it.

So, what kind of entity was responsible for balancing?

At least, it meant that the Leader of the Metal Dragons, who were assessed as good dragons, had taken on that role.

“Hmm, can’t we call upon the Spirit Kings? Like now.”

“It’s not that easy. They can only use their full power from the spirit realm here for a very short time. It would be different if they created a complete body here, but that is impossible. Didn’t you visit the Dragon Palace? Even the Spirit King of Water, who donned the role of ‘Sea God’ there, couldn’t use even half of his power.”

“Ah…”

“Thanks to that, teasing Ellie was incredibly easy.”

Bahamut chuckled mischievously again.

For Ha Leeha, it wasn’t a particularly pleasing story.

It shattered the expectation that he might be able to receive help from the Spirit Kings in times of crisis.

It seemed they could only provide minimal help, making it hard to consider it a “Trump Card.”

“Then, Blaugrunn, take good care of yourself and continue to hone your skills. It seems you’ll be back to your former self soon.”

“Pardon!? I—I’ll bear that in mind, lord.”

“Wha?! Lord Bahamut? What you just—”

Shwshhhh—!

Bahamut disappeared without answering Ha Leeha’s urgent question.

In front of the cave entrance, frozen solid, Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn looked at each other excitedly.

“Blaugrunn… finally?”

“Recently, I’ve been feeling the fullness of mana! It seems the time has come!”

Shedding the juvenile stage and entering the adult stage.

In Middle Earth, for an ordinary dragon, ‘age’ would be the top priority, but Blaugrunn was an exception.

“Finally… finally! Ha! At last!”

Ha Leeha screamed inside in joy numerous times.

The moment the full strength of an adult dragon joined, the power of the “Ha Leeha Division” would increase severalfold.

“Alright, then let’s head to where those guys are.”

“Understood!”

With just a brief mention, Blaugrunn prepared to teleport to where Luger and Kidd were.

“I think we handled the Pierrot-Cocri side… Oh yes, let’s check the achievements given by Snow Storm and Gerda.”

〈Achievement: Cold but Warm Spirits (A)〉

Congratulations!

You have been acknowledged by the spirits of snow and ice. Not only must you be adored by water spirits, but also maintain a certain level of intimacy with wind spirits to reveal these spirits! Especially if acknowledged by high-ranked spirits, it means you know innumerable spirits and maintain close relationships with them.

Even in the middle of a desert, they can create snow and ice if you wish. Though they may act cold, their hearts are warm, so please don’t judge them just by their appearances!

Reward: Intelligence +10, mind +7

Ice attribute resistance +10%

“Oho!? As expected, it gives ice resistance. It’s a shame there’s no Hall of Fame, but… 10% is plenty! Now it’s 100%! Muhahaha!”

The accumulated ice resistance was 90%.

Even severely enhanced status effects couldn’t affect Leeha much at 90%. So, 100%?

It meant that he could now resist all status effects related to ice or snow skills, except for the physical damage dealt by the actual magic itself.

“With fire, if it lacks a physical form, it’s zero damage. Probably, even if an Ice Spear flies at me, I’ll just get the ‘spear stabbing’ damage without any additional ice attribute damage, right?”

Thinking most of the damage from ice-related skills came from the additional ice attribute, even if there was some physical damage, it would hardly affect Leeha.

“Preparation is complete, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Huh? Oh, alright then, let’s go.”

“Understood. Teleport—”

Wiiing—! Wiiing—!

“Huh, vibration?”

But it wasn’t the sound of whispers. It was a tremor.

A very faint but certainly palpable tremor shaking the whole body.

“Wait—”

Just as Ha Leeha’s face contorted,

Shwshhhh…!

They teleported.

* * *

“……What kind of face is that for someone who says it’s all resolved—”

“Did you eat dung?”

Kidd and Luger asked upon seeing Ha Leeha suddenly appear. Ha Leeha couldn’t respond to their questions.

What was that final tremor?

“……Something’s strange. Blaugrunn, didn’t you feel anything?”

“Me? No.”

“Ice! The ice— no, it definitely froze. What was that?”

“What nonsense are you spouting? Speak so we can understand.”

Even as Luger pressed him, Ha Leeha found it hard to open his mouth. What if what he was thinking was true?

“No, it must be. It has to be. While Blaugrunn is skilled at mana detection, there have always been targets he missed—”

Blaugrunn had even detected the faint mana of vampires and necromancers. The things that even such a Blaugrunn couldn’t detect were invariably just one. What meaning did that last tremor hold?

Watching Ha Leeha’s darkening expression, Kidd took out a crystal ball.

“We’re going to the Eastern Continent. Ha Leeha, you should come with us.”

Kidd hurriedly suggested as if he had caught on to something. Only Luger alternated his glance between the two of them, frustrated.

“These idiots! So what the hell are you—”

“Luger.”

“—Huh?”

“And Blaugrunn.”

“Yes?”

“We might need to call the Lord again.”

At Ha Leeha’s words, Kidd bit his lip.

Luger’s expression also began to change slowly.

“An alarm… rang?”

Luger asked.

“It was a tremor. A vibration that shook the whole body. The kind you feel unconsciously when you see something terrifying.”

“Ha Leeha! What do you mean by that? And why do we need to call the Lord suddenly—”

Blaugrunn was the last to realize. As a dragon, Blaugrunn couldn’t possess the ‘Achievements’ won by the Three Musketeers and thus couldn’t see any of the explanations.

Ha Leeha explained, looking at him.

“Pyrot Cocri may have already come out of the Peklo City.”

“What!? What do you mean by that!”

Blaugrunn jumped.

Ha Leeha shook his head and revised his words.

“No, strictly speaking, Pyrot Cocri probably hasn’t awakened. If that were the case, lord Bahamut would have known, and more importantly, he’d have immediately headed to the New Continent or somewhere else, instead of staying here. So what we have to consider is, like the description of the achievement, ‘an undead that her figment or her influence reached’…?”

When did it happen? When the Three Musketeers exited, talked to Bahamut, and summoned Lumi in that brief moment? Did she already finish preparing to send her figment out into the world at that time?

“Bahamut thought Pyrot Cocri was trying to lure him, didn’t he? That’s why he didn’t even enter. Should we assume that Pyrot Cocri predicted this far?”

If Pyrot Cocri foresaw that ‘Bahamut would not come, and even if he did, he wouldn’t enter her abode but would use a method to freeze the entrance’?

If we think that way, Pyrot Cocri must have sent her figment out before Bahamut even reached her abode entrance.

‘And then hid somewhere, erasing her presence… only to appear after everyone returned to catch me?’

What if he hadn’t teleported? What if Blaugrunn, the helper, hadn’t been there?

Would she have left Ha Leeha, who was left alone, alone?

What was it that she sent out, and what kind of power did it possess?

Blaugrunn looked uneasy as he watched Ha Leeha, who closed his mouth and organized his thoughts. Ha Leeha swallowed once before he managed to organize everything.

“What’s important is whether it’s a figment or an undead influenced by her… someone who can use a part of Pyrot Cocri’s power—”

A game of moves he couldn’t even begin to fathom.

The game played by the highest-level NPCs in Middle Earth.

Here on out, he’d have to flee from such beings.

He’d have to fight against such beings.

“Means it’s out in the world.”

The Three Musketeers shared the same feeling.

Because it meant that even though it was incomplete, they would have to face all three Fragments of the Demon King’s Fragment at once.
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『You, really… are amazing.』

By this point, there was a hint of amazement on Shimo’s face.

『Much more… impressive than the ritual I have been in.』

“Yes? Is that so? Ah? Um, maybe… you could be right.”

『You truly have the right to carry on the name of the ‘White Reaper.’ No, I firmly believe you will become a far superior White Reaper than I ever was.』

Shimo patted Ha Leeha’s shoulder with a satisfied expression.

The meaning of the ‘ritual’ eventually entailed meeting the spirits of snow and ice and learning the skill to invoke snowfall.

Having met the top-grade spirit Gerda, Ha Leeha had learned ‘Snow Storm’, a skill several ranks higher than what Shimo had requested, leaving Shimo utterly astonished.

While Shimo’s praise felt good, Ha Leeha’s expression did not easily brighten up.

『Is something bothering you?』

“No, well… yes. Suddenly, a tremendous concern has arisen.”

Naturally, that issue was Pyrot-Cockri.

Blaugrunn, standing next to Ha Leeha, had spread out a mana detection net with a radius of 600 meters to prepare for any eventualities.

He wanted to leave the place immediately, but…

“I still have one more quest left.”

Kidd and Luger had already departed.

“It would be wise to go together. Commander Browless is also looking for you, Ha Leeha, and the best way to escape from the undead monster empowered by the Pyrot-Cockri or the Demon King’s Fragment is with us.”

“I, I want to do that too! But I can’t go right now. I haven’t learned the skill yet!”

“Haha, it doesn’t matter if it’s a skill for the second class advancement; you can learn it step by step. If you be too greedy over that one thing, you’ll incur a bigger loss.”

Kidd’s earnest advice and Luger’s aggressive suggestion held the same meaning eventually.


They needed to leave here right now.

Of course, ‘here’ referred narrowly to northern Shazrashian and broadly to the entire old continent.

“You guys think it’s easy because your growth methods are different from mine, okay? Don’t think I’m staying here because I want to. Most importantly, without a definite attack skill, participating in the Eastern Expedition of the New Continent would be extremely difficult to achieve results—”

“So, you haven’t learned any attack skills?”

“No attack skills?”

Ha Leeha could tell from their reactions.

He still didn’t know Kidd’s exact profession name, but it was clear that Kidd had learned at least one attack skill.

“Well, my second class advancement is a bit unusual… No, it might be because it’s too powerful and therefore difficult.”

“Hahaha! You still talk big. Acting so arrogant when you’re on the edge of death.”

Luger chuckled, mocking Ha Leeha.

However, Ha Leeha did not particularly get angry or agitated.

“I won’t argue about being arrogant, but if you hear this, you might change your mind. My second class advancement is related to ‘Arcane Sniper’.”

He had a one-shot that could bring them to their knees instantly.

“What!?”

“What did you say!?”

Kidd and Luger’s eyes widened.

They couldn’t fully believe Ha Leeha’s words, yet they feared falling behind in information if they didn’t. This duality left them momentarily speechless.

“Anyway, that’s why I want to go to the Eastern New Continent right away, but I’m holding back. So, you two should go first. Keep in touch about which routes you take, though. I’ll follow shortly.”

Ha Leeha shrugged, fully understanding their feelings.

Kidd and Luger did not press Ha Leeha any further.


“Ahem, p-please take care of yourself.”

“If you… If you turn undead, that will be my chance to officially blow your head off… but don’t let it happen.”

Looking at them, their faces full of concern and embarrassment, Ha Leeha laughed.

“Haha, don’t worry and go ahead.”

Whether it was due to the information related to ‘Arcane Sniper’ or genuine concern, he appreciated their sentiments regardless.

After they had left, the blasting by the giants finished, and with no monster threats left, Ha Leeha could finally approach Shimo.

“Do you, by any chance, know about Pyrot-Cockri? Or the Demon King’s Fragment…?”

『”Pyrot-Cockri? No, I don’t know well about that.”』

“I see.”

It made sense since Shimo was an NPC who had been deeply engrossed in the battles between Panrind and Kraven, having no relation to the Second Human-Demon War.

—

**New Elements and Characters**:

– Shimo (시모) = Shimo (he/him)

– Pyrot-Cockri (피로트-코크리) = Pyrot-Cockri (it)

– Demon King’s Fragment (마왕의 조각) = Demon King’s Fragment (varies)

– Gerda (게르다) = Gerda (it)

Ha Leeha rubbed his cheeks vigorously with both hands.

Pyrot-Cockri was chasing him. And there was no way to escape.

So, what did he need to do?

“Alright! Then it’s time for ‘White Reaper’, right!? I want to learn it quickly!”

The best option right now was to learn the skill as fast as possible and join the Eastern Expedition of the New Continent. That was the best course of action for now.

Even though it was a feigned enthusiasm, it still helped quite a bit.

『Finally, it’s the last one.』

“That’s right.”


In contrast, Shimo’s expression turned a bit serious.

『This is the last time I can talk to you and stay here.』

“……What?”

The final quest related to the ‘White Reaper’. In other words, it meant that Shimo’s spirit would disappear.

『White Reaper: Master of Snow and Ice—4』

The quest has been completed.

You have leveled up.

Skill—White Reaper has been learned.

“W-What?”

Ha Leeha’s eyes widened as if they would pop out.

He had learned White Reaper?

‘Wasn’t this quest supposed to find pure snow and perform a ritual? So, I thought it would connect to the next quest. Why did I get this skill already—’

Ha Leeha’s doubts were not dispelled.

Again, Shimo slowly opened his mouth.

『The White Reaper shall return to the White Reaper…….』

Swoosh────!

At the same time, a holographic window appeared in front of Ha Leeha’s eyes.

* * *

『White Reaper: The Bullet That Even Makes Death White』

Description: “What color comes to mind when you think of death? Dark, gloomy, red, or gray and ashes.

‘White Reaper’ is in stark contrast to that. It makes even death pure white, evaporating the body, mind, and the soul of the target. While only the ‘White Reaper’ can use this, it’s not something the ‘White Reaper’ can use alone. Your weapon, which is an extension of your soul, must also become a part of the ‘White Reaper’.”

The White Reaper, Shimo, intended to pass on his soul. Pass his test to receive it.

Requirement: Success in weapon integration

Reward: Skill—White Reaper’s restriction removal

Do you accept?

‘Yes, the rifle. When Shimo used it—’

The rifle he held had become one with the White Reaper’s right arm.

‘The term “bio-weapon” might be the most suitable term here. It was so bizarre that there was no other word that could describe it. It was a form of weapon never seen anywhere in Middle Earth.’

‘Oh! When Alexander was charging, his spear elongated, right? At that time, it seemed like his body became one with the spear.’

Ha Leeha recalled a skill that produced a similar result.

But upon further thought, it was clearly different.

Alexander’s charging was akin to a skill effect where the wavelength of light engulfed his body in such a manner.

‘This one……won’t be easy either, will it?’

Since there were no failure conditions or penalties, Ha Leeha presumed that the quest itself would be very challenging, implying the requirement for complete success.

『I have given you my sight, my breath, my family, and my comrades who gave me strength; now, only one thing remains.』

All the things Shimo mentioned had been completed in quests after Ha Leeha’s job change to the White Reaper and their accompanying rewards.

The reward in the third quest for the ritual was something Shimo had intended to pass on.

When building a close relationship with the Panrind people and aiding them, the reward was expressed with the word ‘family’, causing Ha Leeha to feel somewhat emotional.

『Do you know what that is?』

“The rifle…is it?”

『Correct. A low-grade rifle won’t withstand ‘White Reaper’ and may explode. In the worst case, the user might die too.』

“Indeed.”

It meant any rifle could not be used.

As Ha Leeha nodded with a tense expression, Shimo slightly smiled.

『But you can do it.』

“Why is that?”

The reason was, of course, only one.

『From your black rifle, I can sense the spirit of my beloved weapon, which I once used.』

“Ah… ah!? Ah! Aaaah!”

The astonishing incident, which Ha Leeha had momentarily forgotten about and had paid no attention to due to its lack of apparent efficacy, came to mind.

Caused by the absurd result of a synthesis failure…

The Black Bass had devoured Shimo’s rifle.

『Of course, it still won’t be easy. If your rifle surpasses the level of my beloved weapon… it means it would be even harder to master.』

“Before that, may I ask one question?”

『Hmm? What is it?』

“If I use the White Reaper, will you disappear, Shimo-nim?”

Shimo understood Ha Leeha’s question.

He shook his head as he answered.

『No. Even if you don’t use the White Reaper, I will disappear. The moment you make that promise with me.』

But that answer was not the direction Ha Leeha had hoped for.

It meant that Shimo would disappear the moment the quest was accepted, not upon its completion. That was even worse.

“Then what about me? I only received the name, but I am still infinitely lacking―”

『You are not lacking.』

Shimo grasped Ha Leeha’s shoulders anxiously and looked him in the eye.

『You have already surpassed me, and more importantly, you know someone incomparable to someone like me.』

“Excuse me?”

『You’ve already seen how I learned the White Reaper, haven’t you? So, I believe you’ll understand my intentions. Following that person’s path would be more beneficial than learning from me.』

Ha Leeha understood Shimo’s words. He was referring to the person who had taught the White Reaper to the Panrind people.

‘Arcane Sniper, Francis… In the end, this means―’

Follow in the footsteps of Arcane Sniper.

There, and at the end of that path, lies the learning.

Ha Leeha instinctively felt that this was not in the form of a quest. In other words, he would no longer get any hints from Shimo.

Yet, Ha Leeha’s sense of disappointment did not lie in some extension of a quest, but in Shimo himself.

An NPC with the same name as himself in the real world. The sense of kinship he felt from that alone was significant.

The complex emotions stemming from the tension, anxiety, impatience, and excitement during suffocating sniper fights—how intense were those feelings?

Now, he had to sort through those emotions.

“Hooo… I understand.”

Ha Leeha steadied his breathing.

“By the way, being unified with the rifle is possible through the technique called White Reaper, right?”

『Of course. Remember that for us, a rifle is not a mere object but akin to a soul. When you can handle it better than your own limbs, the White Reaper will be complete.』

This was the last hint Ha Leeha received from the former White Reaper.

Though it was an immensely short period compared to Browlist, he had to prepare to part ways with the NPC who had given him teachings as profound and deep as Sergeant Kim.

“Thank you for everything, Shimo-nim.”

『What are you saying. I am more grateful. Thank you truly for saving the crazed me and my unfortunate people.』

As Ha Leeha listened to Shimo’s words, he finally pressed the accept button.

『The White Reaper… to the White Reaper….』

Shimo smiled and gestured toward his spirit rifle.

Ha Leeha forced a smile and lifted Black Bass to respond to his greeting.

At that moment, a light burst forth, as if it would envelop all of the ruins where Shimo’s spirit had dwelled.

─────────────…….

『I’ll leave everything to you, White Reaper.』

Ha Leeha couldn’t see Shimo’s expression as he said those words. However, he could guess it through his voice.

“Leave it to me.”

By the time Ha Leeha replied, the light had subsided.

There was no one left there anymore.

Only Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn stood alone in the abandoned house amidst the ruins where Ha Leeha and Shimo had once mapped out their large operations.
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“Ha Leeha-nim…”

Blaugrunn approached to comfort Ha Leeha. Although he felt a strange sensation, Ha Leeha soon managed to smile and speak.

“Well, it’s quite sad but it was something I could have expected. Rather than that, we should look into the ‘White Reaper’ and the unification with firearms.”

“Yes! With the power of Pyrot-Cocri roaming around, there’s no time to be sad!”

“Hehe, we also need to inform Lord Bahamut about this.”

“Absolutely, absolutely. We have a mountain of work to do!”

Hearing Blaugrunn’s words of encouragement, Ha Leeha stepped outside.

What should he do now?

The quickest way was to confront it head-on.

“The snow is falling! No need to use Snow Storm. Blaugrunn! Step aside!”

Ha Leeha lifted the Black Bass.

Fortunately, the area near the ruins was free of wandering NPCs.

It was the perfect place for testing something, so Ha Leeha loudly shouted the name of the skill.

“〈White Reaper〉!”

Ha Leeha utilized the skill.

『Using White Reaper.

Starting unification with the rifle.』

“Oh, oh, oh!?”

Ha Leeha hastily changed his stance from the typical aiming posture.

White particles of light slowly gathered on his right arm holding the Black Bass. The barrel and stock of the Black Bass melted into his body and were being absorbed.


“Ha Leeha! That—”

“Watch closely, watch closely! This is what I wanted to talk about last time! Hahaha!”

Ha Leeha let out a strange laugh as he aimed forward.

The black gun of the Black Bass began covering itself in the white light, intertwining with Ha Leeha’s arm.

The light clustered so intensely that it seemed like it would explode, and Ha Leeha could feel a peculiar sensation of controlling his arm.

It was as if his arm had lengthened and become heavier, with a hot energy gathering at the end!

“Ahh, great, great! Is this how Luger felt when using ‘Acht-Acht’? Now I just need to fire―”

Although it was his first time using the skill, Ha Leeha instinctively knew the timing to ‘fire’.

“Let’s go! Black Bass, we’ve finally become one!”

Since his right arm had already melted into the Black Bass, he didn’t even need to move his index finger to pull the trigger.

The rifle had truly become part of his body now.

“Uraaaaaaa――――!”

Ha Leeha fired towards the snowy clearing and the snow-filled sky as if with a loud yell.

And at that moment, a system notification window appeared before Ha Leeha’s eyes.

『The rifle has rejected the user.

Unification with the rifle has failed.

『Final Unification Rate: 55.5%』

White Reaper (Limit) has been fired.』

“Huh? What—”

『───────────────!』


“—Ah!”

Ha Leeha’s body was flung backward and tumbled into the snow.

As his body flew back as if kicked by someone, the 〈White Reaper〉 clearly extended out from his body in the opposite direction.

“Phew, what kind of recoil is this? I guess I’ll need to use some joint locking skills. Blaugrunn! How was it?”

Tumbling several times in the snow, Ha Leeha brushed off the snow that had entered his ears and approached.

Although the system notification made him feel uneasy, hadn’t he definitely felt the ‘recoil’?

That meant, after all, 〈White Reaper〉 had activated!

What would an NPC destined to become an adult dragon say about the power of 〈White Reaper〉?

Ha Leeha honestly wanted to hear Blaugrunn’s evaluation.

Contrary to Ha Leeha’s expectations, Blaugrunn shook his head with a disappointing look.

“Hmm… I’m really disappointed.”

“Yes?”

“You told me that beams of light reflected on the snow and ice and endlessly split… burning everything and evaporating enemies completely, right?”

“That’s correct! Of course, since there were no enemies now, it was just a spectacular light show—”

“It was three beams.”

“—there was—what?”

Blaugrunn sighed and explained.

The moment the laser touched the snow-covered ground, it dispersed.

The laser, bifurcated into two, touched the snowflakes falling from the sky.

And then it disappeared altogether.


“What did you say? It disappeared?”

“Yes. It split with a buzzing sound forming a V-shape. Initially, it was one beam, then it split into two when it touched the ground. In total, three beams evaporated immediately. It wasn’t the enemies that disappeared; the attack itself evaporated.”

“W-what are you talking about! The 《White Reaper》 is supposed to be incredible—oh, wait, wait.”

Ha Leeha was somewhat flustered by Blaugrunn’s words, but he soon understood.

Indeed, the system notification had indicated that the skill was not perfect.

‘Let’s see, what kind of nonsense makes them talk like this about the strongest skill—’

He then opened the skill window.

〈White Reaper—Limit〉

Description: “The beam that will track, reflect upon snow and ice, and annihilate enemies.”

An attack transferred with fraction of the power of the 《Arcane Bullet》, affected by the power of the rifle used. Currently, a substantial part of its abilities is sealed.

Usable by: Arcane Sniper or White Reaper

Use conditions: 100% integration with the rifle

『Current integration level 55.5% (Details)』

Effect: (Limited) A beam attack dealing 120% of the user’s attack power

Mana: (Limited) 3,000 on initial fire

(Limited) 1,000 for each split beam

The second job’s attack skill and the 〈White Reaper〉’s ultimate skill indeed had a different structure and content from the usual skill window.

“There’s no duration… no cooldown… Hey, is this a joke!”

3,000 mana on initial fire.

1,000 mana for each split laser beam.

Blaugrunn could only see three laser beams. Ha Leeha’s current total mana was 5,455.

It used 3,000 on firing and 1,000 for each of the two newly split beams.

‘What is this? Why isn’t this integrating?’

He had understood from the start that it was a restricted skill.

The very quest given by the White Reaper, Shimo, was about perfecting the integration with the rifle.

The reward for that was the unsealing of 〈White Reaper〉.

So, it was natural for the current skill to be restricted.

‘But the restriction is…’

The skill window, uncharacteristically for Middle Earth, provided extensive information.

It showed what the limitations were and at what level they were set.

‘Even with these restrictions, it deals 120% of my attack power. This is superb! I can’t even imagine how powerful it will be when fully unleashed! But the mana cost is unbelievable!’

Was the mana cost so high because of the restrictions?

‘I’m going crazy. What good is 120% attack power if it consumes so much mana! It’s better to spam multi-warhead missiles!’

Would he be able to reproduce the power shown by Shimo once the restrictions were lifted?

Ha Leeha found a clue to unsealing the restriction in the skill window.

“Integration! How to integrate with the rifle—oh, details? I can press this?”

“Yes?”

Blaugrunn cast a worried glance at Ha Leeha, who was muttering to himself.

『Current integration level 55.5% (Details)』

There was no longer an NPC to guide him, so the skill itself contained detailed information.

Ha Leeha, without responding to Blaugrunn, pressed the (Details) button in the skill window.

〈White Reaper—Limit—Firearm Integration〉

Integration Rate: 55.5%

Description: The rifle 『Black Bass』 has absorbed 『The Mosin-Nagant from the legend of the White Reaper』, fulfilling all conditions to use 〈White Reaper〉 more powerfully, but it is refusing integration with its user. Facilitate the release of all abilities the gun possesses to become its true master.

“… Ah…”

Ha Leeha felt as if he could hear Black Bass’s voice.

He started to understand a little why the Bottleneck had made that ‘ugh’ sound.

It would guarantee stronger and smoother usage than the typical 〈White Reaper〉.

So, release all my seals.

“Do I need to clear all the Black Bass quests…?”

『Sealing of Black Bass—6』

Description: Kill a monster of level 300 or higher from at least 5,000 meters away with one shot (0/1).

“…But why is it at 55.5%? Shouldn’t it be at 71.4% after clearing five out of seven?”

How could it be at 55.5% after clearing five quests?

What did that percentage mean?

‘If I calculate it, umm, umm. If the denominator is 9 and the numerator is 5, it comes out to 55.5555—’

Weren’t the Black Bass quests supposed to be seven?

Why was the denominator 9?

“No way…”

“What’s wrong?”

“I, first! We need to head to Gaza City, quickly!”

Ha Leeha’s mind started to race.

* * *

Ha Leeha stared at the auction house window with desperate eyes.

‘Please, please, please—’

Category: Weapons—Musket. Grade: Legendary. Search!

“…As expected, it’s not there.”

Musket is a weapon rare even at the Heroic or Rare grade.

Even with legendary weapons, the most in-demand items like one-handed swords were rarely or never listed at auction, so it didn’t make sense for a musket to be there.

“Ah… this is driving me crazy.”

Ha Leeha’s first idea was to find a new legendary gun.

Even if it wasn’t a 〈Legendary Mosin Nagant of the White Reaper〉, he hoped that having at least one legendary gun would allow him to achieve some kind of gun unification.

So, with a desperate heart, he came to the auction house!

‘Bottleneck is really too much. I told him I’d somehow provide the money…’

“Why do you need a legendary gun when you have Black Bass?”

“No, it’s urgent now. Never mind the performance; just make me a legendary class one.”

“City finances aren’t great these days, are they? Besides, considering I only work on 〈Legendary〉 creations, I can’t just ignore the performance. To include special resources or abilities, I need a medium… and in the current situation, I can’t immediately obtain such things, so it’s unrealistic.”

“Bottleneck, just hide your name and give me anything legendary—”

“Hmm, lord. As Chief Engineer, I must advise you. Even I don’t know if I can create a gun comparable to Black Bass. And in terms of performance, it can never match up to that. To create such a ‘living’ gun, I would have to give up my position as Chief Engineer and devote my whole life to it…”

It was a tactful refusal. Using the term ‘make do’ in front of an NPC who had already reached the ‘Legendary’ tier was naturally not going to work.

Especially when the comparison was 〈Black Bass〉.

Ha Leeha felt a pang of resentment for having Middle Earth’s strongest gun at times like this.

“I can’t make a legendary one… I can’t buy a legendary one…”

In the end, only one path remained.

To clear all of Black Bass’s quests as quickly as possible.

Ha Leeha’s weary steps led him to the Sacred Gryll.

Blaugrunn was not with him.

—Blaugrunn, how did it go?

Ha Leeha had returned to Gaza City with Blaugrunn, but he immediately remembered something Blaugrunn had to do and sent him to Bahamut’s lair.

—Lord said with a serious face that he understood. But he mentioned that no signs were detected by the alarm magic…

—Yes. They likely left before the alarms or gateway closures kicked in. This means we need to search…

—We will continually use nearby dragons for detection. Lord advised that rash action could lead to unknown consequences, so we must report everything to him directly.

—Okay. That should do for now. Understood.

A clone of Pyrot-Cockri or some other undead.

That was in the northernmost part of Shazrashian.

Ha Leeha hoped that Bahamut would immediately scour the entire region, but he knew from the start this was impossible.
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“She wouldn’t have been able to use teleport. There was no time to cast a tracking spell either.”

No matter how skilled Pyrot-Cocri was, it would have been impossible to reach Gaza City, the border city touching Minis.

Ha Leeha guessed that it would take a significant amount of time for Pyrot-Cocri just to search for him and the Three Musketeers in the New Continent.

“I wanted to blow Pyrot-Cocri away with the 〈White Reaper〉, but oh well.”

Ha Leeha felt somewhat regretful about that. It was why he had even turned down Kidd and Luger’s suggestion to cross over to the New Continent, hoping for that opportunity.

And here he was with such restricted skills as a result!

“Ugh, no point in lamenting. Let’s just get it done.”

Ha Leeha entered the Holy Grill Gaza City branch and sat down at a table.

‘It’s been a while since I was here, too.’

Ha Leeha spoke the code to meet Joo as soon as a waiter approached.

“Vodka martini. Shaken, not stirred.”

“It’s not ready yet. Would you like another drink in the meantime?”

“Can I choose it myself?”

“Of course. Follow me, please.”

Ha Leeha glanced around quickly, then got up to follow the waiter.

The stricter entrance policies of the Holy Grill signified that the situation in Middle Earth was no longer the same as before.

‘I hope Luger and Kidd are doing well.’

While Ha Leeha sought various pieces of information at the Holy Grill, a commotion was also happening at the headquarters of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 in the western part of the New Continent.

* * *

“Pyrot-Cocri…”


“Wow… That’s intense.”

“Goodness.”

“Even with the Lord’s intervention, a Demon King’s Fragment appeared!”

Everyone inside, NPCs and users alike, including the Ancient Gold Dragon Bailephus, had expressions of disbelief.

Luger nodded, and Kidd added an explanation.

“To be precise, it wasn’t exactly a Demon King’s Fragment that appeared. When we left, Pyrot-Cocri was definitely sealed in the crystal ball, and Ha Leeha’s testimony along with our… interpretation suggests that it was her clones or one of her subordinates that surfaced.”

Kidd chose his words carefully, as he couldn’t mention the ‘achievement notification’ that the NPCs had received.

Nevertheless, both Ewin, who possessed high-level AI, and the Ancient Gold Dragon could understand.

“Ewin, what should we do?”

Fernand cautiously asked Ewin.

The Fox of the Prairie shrugged and drew a line.

“There’s nothing we need to do. We’ve come here with the 〈Sacred Alliance〉’s original mission. The good information brought by the new Three Musketeers of Fibiel should be conveyed to the Lopé Continent. They will handle it. The current Pope is exceptionally smart.”

The personnel here needed to focus on searching the eastern New Continent and the floating island, 〈Laputa〉.

Other members of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 should prepare for the Demon King’s Fragment’s possible invasion of the western New Continent.

Ewin’s mention of the Pope was surprisingly clear-cut.

There wasn’t much reason to oppose his statement, and voicing objections would be tantamount to defying the Pope.

“I think the Commander is right. We must head to the eastern New Continent as soon as possible before Le realizes the possibility of Pyrot-Cocri awakening. Before Le discovers the location… we must save Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle. Even if Pyrot-Cocri awakens, if they are there…”

They could be dealt with. Therefore, they must go.

His solemn voice supported Ewin’s decision.

For Browless, rescuing his comrades was more important than any mission from the 〈Sacred Alliance〉.


Of course, the essential condition for that was the extermination of ‘Kaztor’, which meant everyone here was needed.

Bailephus hesitated momentarily, but Alexander supported his decision by mentioning the most effective and efficient way to deliver justice, and the Ancient Gold Dragon eventually had to follow the majority’s opinion.

“Ha ha, this way is indeed better for us as well. Isn’t that right, Kidd?”

“… Are you saying that we should have some information that Ha Leeha doesn’t know about 〈Arcane Sniper〉?”

“Indeed. You are well aware of it.”

Ha Leeha had to obtain information before arriving.

To acquire information about Arcane Sniper, which only Ha Leeha knew, Luger and Kidd felt compelled to depart immediately.

“Fernand, I will inform His Holiness the Pope. Just do your best to guide this expedition.”

“Yes, Supreme Commander.”

Everyone’s opinions were converging.

As they had already prepared adequately, there was no reason to delay further.

Except for one person who crossed his arms and leaned against the wall as soon as Pyrot-Cocri’s name was mentioned.

“I already know the way to Laputa, so do I really need to go?”

“… What are you talking about, Lee Jiwon?”

“I acknowledge you’re quite strong for a human, but if there’s a monster influenced by Pyrot-Cocri, you’d be unable to handle it.”

“Pfft~ Seriously? But you’re wrong. I’m just curious about the newly opened northern Shazrashian.”

Lee Jiwon snickered as he saw Alexander and Bailephus looking at him.

“Don’t covet regional and monster accomplishments. There’s information that many Shazrashian users have already entered there. Do you think you can obtain anything now?”

“You’re also greedy but pretend not to be. Why do you always think that way about me?”

Alexander spoke with more emphasis, but Lee Jiwon laughed and countered his words.


Then he slowly drew his black sword.

It wasn’t an act of targeting Alexander or intending to attack someone.

“I have things to do too… I thought I needed to go to ‘Laputa’ and took your hand, but there was no change even after reaching nearby…”

He muttered quietly.

Three people were startled by his words.

Alexander, Kidd, and Luger.

They instinctively understood.

“… And you’re still able to maintain the second rank.”

“The latest rumors say even Pei Wu has succeeded in the second job change. But you, Lee Jiwon, still―”

Rank 1: Alexander, completed second job change.

Rank 3: Igor, combined with a vampire and completed a second job change or an equivalent job change.

Rank 4: Pei Wu, presumed to have completed a second job change.

Rank 5: Petyr, no news.

Rank 6: Ram Hwajung, completed second job change.

Rank 7: Chiyou, combined with a vampire and completed a second job change or an equivalent job change.

Rank 8: Shin Nara, no news.

Rank 9: Faust, combined with a vampire and completed a second job change or an equivalent job change.

Rank 10: Prea, no news.

This was the current status of the top ten rankers known to Kidd and other well-informed individuals.

Although they did not yet know, Shin Nara had also been given a quest for a second job change, suggesting that most of the top ten rankers had completed or were in the process of completing their second job changes.

And yet, what about Lee Jiwon, who was ranked second?

‘Is he saying we should believe he is still in his first job change state?’

‘… If Ha Leeha is just a monster, this guy is a crazy monster. Korean gamers are really nuts―’

Kidd and Luger couldn’t help but frown.

Alexander, knowing this fact, took a moment to steady his breath before confirming Lee Jiwon’s intentions.

“So… you want to go to the old continent?”

“Yup~ The chance has come~ Alexander, you’re really feeling the heat~”

Alexander held back his frustration at Lee Jiwon’s playful demeanor because he understood the professional demands of a magic swordsman.

Countless users had been fascinated by that grand title and taken up the challenge.

However, skills of the swordsman system must be learned in locations suited for swordsmen, while skills of the magician system must be learned in locations suited for mages, and the combination of these skills had to be carefully assembled.

Even on a day without a combat assistance system, executing both skillsets at a high level was necessary for a proper battle, which was no easy feat.

In other words, the effort required was more than double compared to other professions, not to mention the difficulty of leveling up skills and maintaining combat proficiency.

It was precisely because of these challenges that many magic swordsmen across Middle Earth found themselves stuck at the middle tier, unable to climb higher.

If Lee Jiwon, who was already at the top, completed his second job change, what would happen?

More than anything…

‘What’s his second job change name?’

‘Just knowing that would be extremely valuable information.’

‘Is it related to swords? Given the mention of Laputa, could it be connected to an unknown place?’

What would he turn into?

Lee Jiwon wasn’t the type to reveal things like that, no matter how much the three people who had already completed their second job change pondered.

“So… are you saying you’re leaving, Lee Jiwon?”

Ewin asked briefly.

“Anyway, you all recognize that if I join up with you in a stronger state, it will be helpful, right?”

Lee Jiwon answered in his characteristic style.

Granville would have never permitted it. However, unlike the stubborn old knight, the Fox of the Prairie was different.

In reality, Lee Jiwon had the ability to travel alone to the eastern part of the New Continent.

If the advance party needed help, they could send a quick message and contact him.

If Lee Jiwon could enhance himself with some mysterious power before they reached Laputa, it would certainly be a tremendous help to the 〈Sacred Alliance〉.

Even if it was a user from another job class, ewin, who knew for sure the abilities of the second-ranked person, could make a rational and efficient choice.

“Very well. Then as soon as you’re ready… no, right now. The eastern New Continent expedition group and Lee Jiwon are ordered to depart immediately.”

Finally, the expedition team, set to track Kaztor, rescue Arcane Sniper, and explore the floating island in the sky, set off.

Kidd opened a teleport window for Three Musketeers to relay this fact to Leeha.

“The Sea of Dawn—near the buoy in the sea? Is he already trying to catch up to us?”

At that moment, Leeha was in the middle of the Sea of Dawn.

* * *

―Haven’t they departed yet? Then why did they act so urgent? Ah, was it because they lost time coming and going to me? Okay, so it seems Lee Jiwon has gone to make his second job change?

Leeha nodded while whispering with Kidd.

Although the small boat, which was shakier than a small sailing boat, seemed like it could capsize with each wave, Leeha didn’t seem to mind.

―Hmm, okay. If it’s Lee Jiwon, he would at least flee. I’m busy with something important myself, so I’ll finish quickly and then catch up with you. Anyway, make sure to also tell Luger to remember the route!

Leeha, who had gone to the Holy Grill of City Gazza, had asked Ju for a lot of information.

The most immediate piece of information they could get was the emerging locations of monsters above level 300.

‘Even Madam Ju couldn’t easily answer, but it seems she managed eventually.’

It was thanks to the update of various information across the continent.

In the past, it was hard for Madam Ju to even inform about monsters above level 250.

No matter how much it was a system-established ‘information guild’, divulging unverified information about monsters in unopened areas was prohibited.

However, after the opening of the New Continent, the information about numerous monsters and regions was updated, and the authorization for the information guild to divulge such information was strengthened by the Middle Earth system.

After checking out several places due to such updates, Ju was able to deliver the information relatively easily.

“Not that it was easy. All I got was rumors about such monsters existing or what places they might prefer.”

『Myong?』

As Leeha spoke, Jellypong, who had its tentacles dipped in the sea from the front of the small boat, looked up at Leeha.

“No, no. Just continue what you were doing.”

A supermassive shark that emerges from the deepest parts of the sea during a full moon.

There were cases where people repairing mana relay towers or large Kraven ships engaged in deep-sea fishing were attacked and sunk by these monsters.

“Information about a monster that even Drake and Mermaids have never heard of…”
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 831

				
Ha Leeha asked the Holy Grill to find out ‘other information’, purchased a small boat, and immediately teleported to the location.

“I will finish it today.”

Leeha gazed up at the sky.

Even though it was nighttime, the surroundings were bright thanks to the full moon.

“Jellypong, do you sense anything?”

『Myeong myeong!』

The idea of using the water spirit, harnessing the essence of the sea god, as a sonar was quite clever.

‘I’ve felt ocean currents before, so why not this… Hehe, my brain isn’t too bad after all.’

Squeeeak… Squeeeak…

Leeha could feel the waves growing slightly stronger than before.

However, with his mermaid transformation skill and having experienced a 44m/s typhoon, this was child’s play for him.

“All information about Pyrot-Cocri and the item ‘Liberated Legend’, a list of users either undergoing or having completed the second-tier job quest, and the location of ‘that guy’. Whether I can obtain all these is uncertain… but Madam spoke with a lot of confidence, so who knows.”

Through a whisper with Shin Nara, Leeha also learned that she had already started her second-tier job quest, and that Lark had also been assigned the second-tier job quest.

Leeha knew more than the average informed user, but there were still some figures that even he wasn’t aware of, which made him curious.

‘What is Petyr doing?’

What was Minis’s assassin up to?

Leeha had heard from Kijung that Biyemi had exchanged some information with him.

However, Biyemi only knew a few shared pieces of information and was unaware of Petyr’s exact location or activities.

‘Ram Hwajung leveled up immediately after her second-tier job quest. Even so, she couldn’t surpass Petyr in rankings.’

Ram Hwayeon bragged almost daily about how powerful Ram Hwajung’s ‘Snow White’ class was.


To Leeha, it sounded unbelievable, but it was true that Ram Hwajung had leveled up.

‘And the level Ram Hwajung secretly told me is—’

『Myeong myeong!』

“Huh?! You’re back?”

『Myo, myo myong myeong! Myeong!』

“Alright, it’s coming.”

Leeha loaded a cartridge into his Black Bass and pulled the bolt.

Click—!

“Jellypong, you need to cling to me just before it surfaces, got it?”

『Myeong!』

With his heart racing, the small boat began to dance on the waves.

Swish…

Swooosh…

Swoshhhh…

Feeling as if the ground beneath his feet was swelling up, Jellypong dashed towards him at full speed.

『Myo oooong—!』

In the open sea at dawn, a little away from the buoy.

In the moment when Leeha’s small boat was swallowed into the jaws of an unbelievably gigantic shark…

“Let’s go! 〈Partner: Arrival〉!”

Leeha activated his skill on cue.


From the small boat, straight up to 5,230 meters in the air over the sea, Blaugrunn, as if waiting, cast levitation magic.

* * *

“〈Eagle’s Eye〉, 〈Snip— e〉, wow, it’s insanely huge!”

“This is no time for comments, Ha Leeha-nim! Make sure I get the corpse to study, okay?”

“If it’s no time for talking, why are you asking? Focus!”

Leeha quickly observed the creature through the scope.

If you made a whale five times larger, would it look like that?

The massive underwater monster was tearing through the ocean surface, rising into the air.

‘It’s risen that high, yet I still can’t see its pectoral fins. The part that’s surfaced seems to be just past its mouth and eyes? That would make it somewhere between its head and chest…’

Leeha saw the monster emerging from the sea, using his 〈Eagle’s Eye〉.

Even from a distance of over 5km, it was visible enough to feel like a tree suddenly sprouting on flat ground.

Ha Leeha felt a burning heat gather in his eyes.

He realized that not only was the skill 〈Eagle’s Eye〉 active, but also the passive ability of 〈Distorted Vision〉.

‘The skill level is still low. I can’t see the wind perfectly at such a long distance yet.’

This was a distance of over 5km.

The guideline extending from the gun barrel was still around 100m, and the “Wind Path” visible in the night sky was all that Ha Leeha could discern.

Therefore, Ha Leeha had to make a choice.

What method should be used to kill the monster far away with a single shot?

With his Harpy Hat gone, no matter how well he read the wind, there was bound to be some penalty in long-distance sniping.

‘The item that can cover for the missing hat is right here… This.’


Ha Leeha quietly muttered the skill name.

“〈White Reaper〉.”

White Reaper activated.

Integration with the rifle began.

“Ha Leeha-nim! Hurry up! That thing is going back into the water!”

“It’s natural for it to dive after reaching the peak. Just wait a moment.”

Particles of light quickly gathered.

Thanks to Blaugrunn’s magic, the Black Bass floated and merged into Ha Leeha’s arm.

‘That phrase was accurate. While Shimo felt like a perfect merger, this…’

To Ha Leeha, it merely seemed like Black Bass was consuming his arm. The term “becoming one” was far from appropriate.

The rifle rejected the user.

Integration with the rifle failed.

『Final Integration Rate: 55.5%』

Despite having used it for a long time, regardless of proficiency, the weapon continued to reject him.

Ha Leeha chuckled bitterly while reading the floating text once more.

‘I will release you soon, Black Bass.’

White Reaper (restrained) fired.

At that moment, a beam of light shot out from Ha Leeha’s swollen right arm end.

────────────……!!!!

Thanks to Blaugrunn’s levitation and stabilization, he managed to avoid the embarrassing scene of being blown backward.

Ha Leeha immediately observed the fired light, confirming his hypotheses.

The fired bullet was affected by the wind.

Having verified it multiple times and having suffered not a little because of it thus far, he knew this well.

‘But what about light?’

At least from Ha Leeha’s perspective, 〈White Reaper〉 was an attack form judged as a laser.

Does light get affected by the wind?

What about the difference from the muzzle velocity of 830m/s of what fired from Black Bass?

Does it shoot at literal light speed?

Even if it’s in the form of light, how do we calculate the inherent limit of range the rifle possesses?

Would the light extend only up to the maximum range of the gun amplified by the skill and then disappear?

Ha Leeha was able to verify his doubts and his own convictions.

“Ha Leeha-nim!”

The moment the beam pierced the massive head of the monster that was going back into the seawater, especially its “eye”.

“Gotcha…!”

It pierced the eye, drilled through the brain, exited through the other eye, and extended about 300m further before dissipating.

‘The maximum range of Black Bass is 4,000m, plus a 40% sniping skill amplification.’

5,600m.

From his position, about 5,300m away from the monster, it was a perfect match.

Ba-bam—!

With the fanfare of an achievement, numerous system windows popped up before Ha Leeha’s eyes.

『Seal of Black Bass—6』

Quest completed.

Black Bass has awakened.

『Achievement Unlocked – “One Shot, one Kill – Gigantic Mimic”』.

『Achievement Unlocked – “Beyond Rotation”.』

Ba-Bam―!

『Achievement Unlocked – “Do you know who I am?”.』

‘What, what’s this? Another achievement popped up late― Wait, no, I completed the Black Bass’s quest six times, but there’s no skill reward! Instead of a skill reward, there’s…’

What shocked Ha Leeha was an absurd line stuck in the middle.

“… Awaken?”

The legendary sealed rifle had finally awakened.

* * *

Blaugrunn was flailing as he watched the spray of water caused by the corpse of the ‘Gigantic Mimic’.

“Wow, did you hit it?! It’s so far away I couldn’t tell if it’s dead or alive! As expected―Ha Leeha-nim?”

Just as he was about to rush to collect the corpse, he tilted his head looking at Ha Leeha, who wasn’t responding to his words.

Hit it, killed it, have to loot, achievements popped up. Those thoughts didn’t occupy Ha Leeha’s mind at all.

“Awaken, how?”

The black sniper rifle, which had reverted to its original state after the ‘White Reaper’ deactivating, was as it always looked.

“Hello? Black Bass-nim?”

Ha Leeha tapped the barrel part unnecessarily.

Blaugrunn laughed as he watched him.

“Pffft, what are you doing? More importantly, we have to collect the corpse quickly! If we’re too late, it’ll sink.”

―Finally… reached.―

At that moment, a sound leaked out from near the bolt of Black Bass.

“Whoa! It really talked! Blaugrunn, did you hear that?! Just now―just now―”

“… What?”

Blaugrunn, looking confused, questioned Ha Leeha, but Ha Leeha had no attention to spare for him.

“Black Bass! Black Bass-nim? Oh, Black Bass-ssi? Do you know who I am?”

―Shortest time… Sixth seal release… Name of the contractor.―

“Ha Leeha! It’s Ha Leeha. We’re actually talking, right?”

―Ha Leeha… I will remember the name of the contractor… now, tired…―

“Contractor? Well, it makes sense since it’s a non-tradable item―wait! Quest! What happens now? What do I have to do?”

Ha Leeha felt grateful that there was no one else around.

Shouting at a weapon, what kind of person did that?

Even in a game, it seemed strange. Blaugrunn was looking at Ha Leeha like he was crazy.

Ha Leeha, forgetting any shame, held that pose for a while. But Black Bass didn’t speak further.

“Black Bass? Ssi? nim? Hello?”

Ha Leeha turned the gun around while talking into the magazine insert slot and the muzzle, and even tickling(?) the trigger, but no reply came.

“What, why isn’t it talking? Just now near the bolt―ah, does it mean the bolt carrier is the life of the gun? Blaugrunn! Should we disassemble it? If we take out the bolt carrier, will it talk again?”

“… I have a lot of questions myself, what just happened?!”

Neither humans nor dragons could grasp the situation.

Expressing his frustration, Ha Leeha pounded his chest.

“Black Bass spoke! Didn’t you hear?”

“… You’re saying it spoke to you?”

“Yes! Could it be only audible to me?”

Blaugrunn’s expression changed at that moment.

Seeing Blaugrunn’s face, as though he didn’t care at all about the ‘Gigantic Mimic’ corpse, Ha Leeha felt a shock like electricity running through his body.

“No way… I’ve heard of Ego Swords but―”

“Ego Sword? What is that?”

“A sword with a will.”

“Yes! That’s exactly how it felt. It had a will! Can we call it ‘Ego Gun’―”

“No, but I’m not sure if Ego Swords actually exist in this world.”

“What?”

Blaugrunn’s voice grew solemn.

A sword with a will. What did that imply?

Even the existence of such an item was uncertain. Realizing the implication, Ha Leeha’s heart started to race.
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Blaugrunn, as if to answer his expectations, opened his mouth.

“The Ego Sword is not just a legend; it appeared only in the myths of dragons. Even dragons have hardly seen it themselves. Maybe the Lord might have seen it, but…”

“Ah…”

Ha Leeha forgot all the numerous words Blaugrunn had said.

Only one word remained in his mind.

‘Myth of… the dragon…’

The Black Bass was a sealed item.

How could a sealed item be on the level of a legend?

Ha Leeha felt an urge to hit his own head.

‘Because it was more than that?! It maintained a legendary rank even while sealed because it descended from a higher—myth level!’

Ha Leeha quickly opened the detailed window of the Black Bass. However, nothing had changed.

Was it because the Black Bass was dormant?

Though he felt it strange, he knew he could not resolve this question here.

“Blaugrunn, let’s gather the corpse.”

“Where are we going?”

“To meet the world’s best blacksmith. Maybe he knows something. Hurry!”

“Ah, understood! Transporting the monster’s corpse!”

Blaugrunn controlled his flight magic to move Ha Leeha’s body.

Ha Leeha couldn’t calm his racing heart during the flight towards the water’s surface, 5km away.

‘Oh right, what were the achievements again?’


Even during this, checking the achievements was essential!

“The one-shot achievement is obvious… and the rest—”

〈Achievement: Beyond Rotation (A)〉

Congratulations!

You have hit a target over a distance of 5,000m! Now you have entered the ultra-long-range sniping range where you must calculate the rotation flow of Middle Earth in addition to aiming. You are now recognized as one who has perfectly comprehended and calculated the rotation of Middle Earth! Where does your limit lie? Henceforth, there are no official records to challenge you; only unattainable unofficial records in legends remain. We wish you the best in your future endeavors, and here is a small gift for you.

Reward: Agility +17

Continental Common Reputation 100

You are the first registrant of the ‘Beyond Rotation’ achievement.

The first three registrants of this achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with an additional 200% of the existing effects.

Effect: Agility +34

Continental Common Reputation 200

‘Wow, right. If Middle Earth is a planet similar to Earth, I’d have to calculate the speed of rotation and axis. And gravity too.’

This time, since it was a light-based attack, it might have been somewhat easier.

However, if he had to correct the trajectory of the bullet due to gravity and wind effects, calculations on rotation were essential for distances beyond 5km.

〈Achievement: Do You Know Who I Am? (A)〉

Congratulations!

You have successfully solidified your fame even on the New Continent Erika. By achieving a common reputation of 1,000 on the New Continent Erika, your name now begins to spread not only to all Paleos but even to unexplored areas beyond the central regions where interactions are minimal. You may enjoy the fact that your rumor is spreading even into the unknown land where spatial transport doesn’t occur.

Reward: 17 Stat Points

Permanent Buff – Adventurer’s Dignity

You are the third registrant of the ‘Do You Know Who I Am?’ achievement.


The first three registrants of this achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with an additional 200% of the existing effects.

Effect: 34 Stat Points

‘Ah, because of the Beyond Rotation achievement, I hit exactly 1,000 fame in the new continent. Hehe, so this too…’

Ha Leeha naturally knew who the two prior achievers were. One was obviously Alexander.

‘And the other is likely Fernand. Compared to Lee Jiwon, Fernand invested more effort into building relations with the Paleos.’

Ha Leeha was well aware that intimacy achievements are helpful for Continental Common Reputation.

Compared to Lee Jiwon, who considers every paleo as a ‘hunting target’, Fernand, who pursued both the new region discovery achievements and intimacy achievements, was a more likely second candidate.

‘What kind of performance does the permanent buff have—’

“We have arrived!”

“Ah, already? Then let’s dive. 〈Mermaid Transformation〉!”

Blaugrunn and Ha Leeha dived into the sea towards the gigantic mo-sah’s corpse.

After cutting the parts from the giant corpse, looting it, and moving the entire corpse to Blaugrunn’s lair, the two finally headed back to Gaza City.

* * *

“Ha, if you look at me closely, I find myself funny too.”

“What do you mean?”

“No, heh-heh, I feel something’s off, you know?”

Listening to Ha Leeha’s nonsensical talk, Blaugrunn tilted his head quizzically. Ha Leeha himself couldn’t quite articulate his feelings.

‘Gigantic Mimic? A field boss-level monster of at least level 300. Took it down in one hit—an S-rank achievement is only fitting.’

Even for someone at the same level as Ha Leeha, the 〈One Shot, one Kill~〉 series achievements weren’t easy to come by.

After all, aiming for achievements in low-level hunting grounds or targeting monsters higher level than oneself was practically impossible.


‘Yet I ignored such a precious one-hit achievement and focused on other things…’

As he reviewed his 5,000m distance achievement and New Continent common reputation achievement, he laughed at himself for missing the ‘one-hit achievement.’

“By the way, what did you get from that guy?”

“What? Ah, the items? Two teeth, some chunks of meat, and oil came out… but that’s not what you’re curious about, is it? I’ll give you time to study the carcass later, so hold on a bit.”

“Heh, you already read my mind.”

Blaugrunn spoke shyly.

Studying the remains of a newly encountered monster was indeed the destiny of a curious dragon.

Even asking what items dropped from Gigantic mosaic was an act of ‘testing’!

Ha Leeha realized anew just how intelligent NPCs with high-level AI could be.

Clang— clang-clang—!

As the lively sound of hammering grew louder, Ha Leeha’s heart beat in sync with it.

He came to meet Bottleneck, but that wasn’t the only reason.

“Bottleneck Ajussi!”

“Lord? Didn’t we just meet a few days ago? What do you want to talk about now?”

“Oh, come on, are you ignoring me just because I whined last time?”

Having pestered Bottleneck to make him a legendary rifle, it was no wonder Bottleneck didn’t look kindly upon Ha Leeha.

“It’s not that—”

“Ahem, if you’re not busy… shall we go inside and talk?”

“Hmm… alright. What’s the matter?”

With a reluctant expression, Bottleneck set down his hammer and guided Ha Leeha inside.

Thud—!

Closing the door, locking it tightly, Ha Leeha quietly placed the Black Bass on the table.

“Hmm?”

“I’ve unlocked the sixth seal of Black Bass.”

“Really? Only one left now?”

Seeing Bottleneck’s serious expression, Ha Leeha couldn’t help but smile lightly.

“No, I don’t know.”

“What do you mean, you don’t know? There’s got to be a condition to unlock the seal.”

“There isn’t.”

“What do you mean? There shouldn’t be any—”

“Maybe we’ll find out when it wakes up.”

“—no— huh? What, lord?”

With a baffled expression, Bottleneck’s eyes sparkled with anticipation.

Unable to hold back, Ha Leeha burst into laughter and revealed the truth.

“Heh-heh… Black Bass woke up. It spoke!”

“Wha-what!? Has the seal placed by 〈Shining Hammer〉 been fully released!?”

The one who sealed Black Bass was the legendary blacksmith 〈Shining Hammer〉.

If someone of his caliber sealed Black Bass, wouldn’t Bottleneck, who was of the same rank, be able to?

“I don’t know! That’s why I came to ask you! Ajussi, hurry! Do something! You’re a legendary blacksmith like 〈Shining Hammer〉!”

He was confident that this secret could be unraveled.

Ha Leeha’s intuitions were rarely wrong, and Bottleneck, who was so excited that even his ears turned red, almost lost his composure.

“Alright, let’s see! Yes! Let’s have a look!”

Bottleneck hurriedly assembled various analytical tools, including a loupe, and meticulously examined Black Bass.

“Though it’s not immediately clear, it seems there’s a faint trace of mana around the breech block. Did you notice it, lord?”

“Yes. I saw it up to that point as well.”

It wasn’t because he heard noises nearby the breech.

〈Distorted Vision〉 captured the light emanating from the breech, leading him to believe that it was the core.

“Is this what we need to stimulate…?”

“For reference, I tried infusing mana several times, but it didn’t work.”

“Of course. It’s probably different from regular skills or magic.”

Ha Leeha also attempted it like using a curve shot, but Black Bass didn’t budge.

“Hmm, alright. Are you ready?”

“Can you do it?”

“Tsk! What do you think I am? I may not have reached 100% of the ancestors’ level, but awakening it is possible!”

“As expected!”

Ha Leeha stepped back a few paces from the table. Bottleneck, holding a tool that looked like a soldering iron, swallowed hard.

“Here I go!”

“Do not mess it up!”

“Stop with the ominous talk!”

Ha Leeha couldn’t forget the moment when 〈Mosin Nagant of the Legendary White Reaper〉 had vanished.

Confident yet aware that anything could happen at any moment—that was exactly how Middle Earth was.

‘Please, please, please—!’

Bottleneck approached Black Bass slowly, matching Ha Leeha’s prayers.

The moment the tool he held touched the barrel of the rifle!

ーーーーーーーーー!

“Ooooooook!”

A burst of light emanated from Black Bass.

Bottleneck let out a bizarre exclamation, while Ha Leeha struggled to keep Black Bass’s silhouette in sight amidst the light.

“What—What’s happening? Bottleneck-ssi!”

Bottleneck’s hand remained in contact with Black Bass.

“……”

“Talk to me, right?”

“……”

Bottleneck did not respond to Ha Leeha’s words.

Though only a few seconds had passed, seeing Bottleneck unmoving made Ha Leeha anxious.

Shaaaaa…

Finally, when the light vanished with a sound effect, there stood Bottleneck with a satisfied expression.

“How is it? Right? Talk to me, now?”

Ha Leeha quickly grabbed Black Bass.

“Black Bass! Bess? Black?”

He tried to start a conversation again, but Black Bass’s voice remained silent.

Even after several more attempts, it was the same. Blaugrunn looked back and forth between Ha Leeha and Bottleneck with a surprised expression.

“Lord.”

“What’s the matter—… Sir? Are you crying?”

Just as Ha Leeha was about to urge him, he noticed tears flowing from the eyes of the old dwarf.

“I heard it.”

“Right!? You heard it, didn’t you?”

“Now, the Lord can hear it too. Examine it thoroughly.”

Bottleneck, with a deeply moved expression, stepped back from the table.

Ha Leeha quickly understood what Bottleneck meant by thoroughly examining it.

There was something he had checked multiple times coming up to this point.

‘Until now, the item description window hasn’t changed… But by touching Bottleneck’s hand, finally—!’

He quickly grasped Black Bass and opened the item detail window.

〈Awakened Legendary Black Bass (1st Enhancement – Magma)〉

(Non-tradable)

Even before reading the description below, just the changed name made Ha Leeha feel chills all over his body.

TL’s Corner:

What does Lava even mean? Fire damage?

If the target got hit, will there be a hole in their chest?

If you get the reference, I salute you!
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Blaugrunn sneered as he watched Ha Leeha.

Ha Leeha, standing in the middle of the boulevard, wore a constant, cheerful smile that Blaugrunn found amusing.

“Are you that happy?”

“Happy, you say? Of course, I’m happy.”

Even though it was a teasing tone, Ha Leeha didn’t mind one bit.

‘Hehe, should I take another look?’

He looked again and again at the Black Bass’s item window as if he were admiring the face of a lover, seemingly never tiring of it.

〈Awakened Legend of Black Bass (First Enhancement―Lava)〉

(Non-tradable)

Its former name, 〈Black Bass Enhanced by the Power of Lava (First Enhancement)〉 (Non-tradable), had become much simpler.

Changing or moving the position of a modifier meant that the current item was emphasizing the ‘most important point.’

‘It means the enhancement by the power of lava is now negligible.’

The additional description and effect―no. 2, which had amplified Black Bass’s attack power and range, were no match for the 〈awakened〉 Black Bass.

The only regret was the lack of any additional attack power or range, but Ha Leeha was not one to be greedy about such things at this point.

‘What matters is this!’

Additional Description―2: The consciousness sealed within the legendary rifle has awakened. ―I can 〈see〉 what I need to consume. Now, no enemy will escape me. Imprint me, and I will devour every enemy you desire. So feed me. Awaken my eyes. Offer me the new blood of enemies I have not yet tasted, fresher blood.

―Upon awakening Black Bass’s consciousness, some of its original power can be used under certain conditions.

Additional Effect―3: Activation at 30% charge or more

Sleep at less than 10% charge

Current Charge: 4%


‘Wow! Look at this arrogant tone! Look at these deep―dark word choices!’

No enemy could escape.

It could see what it needed to consume.

Awaken its eyes.

Despite reading it numerous times, the chills still made their way down his spine.

The added effects of the item had introduced the concept of charge rate, along with the conditions for activation and sleep.

‘It’s somewhat like a smartphone battery―being from Middle Earth, it’s irritating that activation is at 30% and sleep is at 10%.’

It didn’t go to sleep at 0%.

To keep Black Bass continually awake, he had to maintain a charge of 10% or more once it was awakened, with the initial awakening requiring 30% charge.

In other words, if he didn’t want unnecessary hassle, he needed to keep the charge from dropping below 10% after the first awakening.

‘How to charge it is still unknown. Despite hearing from Bottleneck, all Black Bass expressed was 〈new enemies〉 and 〈fresh blood〉.’

From that, one condition could be determined.

A monster he had never taken down before.

The current 4% charge seemed to indicate that because he had killed a monster he’d encountered for the first time in his life, the Gigantic Mimic.

‘Hmm… but wouldn’t that be too much? There are thousands of different monster species in Middle Earth, and including derivatives, there are surely tens of thousands…’

What would happen if he hunted a monster he’d caught before?

If it wasn’t recognized, he would have to hunt completely new monsters, those he had never caught even once, while leveling up and completing quests.

‘That’s unfair. Too much. I didn’t level up like other musketeers doing repetitive tasks… I hunted a few different species in small numbers rather than mass-killing a single species.’

He had already faced countless monsters and enemies.

Above all, it was absurd that only 4% had been charged from capturing the Gigantic Mimic, a level 300+ field boss.


“How long will it take to reach thirty percent…”

“Pardon?”

“I think I’ll be busy for a while…”

―Ha Leeha-ssi?

―Oh, madam Ju!

―Could you come by our restaurant for a moment?

―You must have good news, right? I also have a few more things to ask.

The Black Bass was a rifle used by Elizabeth.

It was unclear how or to what extent the seal had been broken for its use, but if it involved the ‘Intelligence Guild’ of the Holy Grill, surely they could find additional information related to Black Bass.

―We are still investigating other matters… but we have found the target you asked for.

Ha Leeha’s steps halted.

Blaugrunn, who had been following closely beside Ha Leeha, also stopped abruptly.

“What’s wrong?”

“Huuuu… Alright. Blaugrunn-ssi, we need to prepare for a moment.”

“Prepare for what?”

“Combat preparation.”

“Pardon? Pardon? All of a sudden? Where? With whom are we fighting?”

Blaugrunn asked urgently, but Ha Leeha was too absorbed in organizing his thoughts to respond.

‘Even though I asked for this, I must be out of my mind.’

The intelligence prowess of the Holy Grill had indeed strengthened significantly.


They say, if you want to catch a tiger, go into its den.

Ha Leeha immediately turned and headed towards the Holy Grill.

* * *

Crunch… Crunch…

Ha Leeha moved cautiously, ensuring he did not make a sound with his footsteps. Blaugrunn was levitating beside him, moving silently.

The forest was thick with tall trees, casting an overall darkness, but Ha Leeha did not light any fire.

Blaugrunn, like Ha Leeha, did not need light to sense his surroundings, a fact they both shared.

“Ha Leeha-ssi.”

“Hmm.”

Blaugrunn spoke cautiously.

Ha Leeha nodded and halted his steps.

He steadied his breathing.

The moment Ha Leeha lifted his head to look at the surrounding trees, a violent rustling echoed.

There was no wind.

Only silhouettes jumping off the branches!

“〈Cloaked Ambush〉!”

“〈Shadow Step〉!”

“〈Neck Slashing〉!”

“〈Achilles Tendon Severance〉!”

“〈Surprise Dance〉!”

Squeeeeeee─!

All the attackers, pouring their skills towards Ha Leeha like lightning, were of the Miyaw race.

But moving like lightning only applied in their perception or to other ordinary users.

“〈Magnetic Field〉: All with metal objects, cease movement.”

The one who tried to attack by teleporting behind Ha Leeha.

The one who attempted to stab Ha Leeha from above with a dagger.

The one who charged low aiming for Ha Leeha’s legs.

And those trying to immobilize Ha Leeha to prevent evasion of these attacks.

Their attacks were fierce and sharp.

Their misfortune was only that their opponent was Blaugrunn.

Connecting to user ‘Lonely Rope’s’ body.

A 200% level difference exists between the skill caster and the target.

The effect of Surprise Dance is reversed.

Gaining control of user ‘Lonely Rope’s’ body for 15 seconds.

“Kii, kihiik!? The skill―”

“Oh my, still making a fuss amidst all this.”

Ha Leeha danced joyfully as he looked up at the miyaw, who had been trying to cast a skill on him.

The miyaw, perched on the tree, mirrored Ha Leeha’s dance move for move.

“Kya, in the past, I couldn’t even budge because of this. The difference in stats is so enormous now that it doesn’t even affect me.”

Ha Leeha reminisced about the time he passed through the ‘Siyand Outpost’ when he was searching for the Dark Elf’s settlement.

Back then, he had been ambushed by the members of the Midnight Circus, and even after calling for reinforcements from the children, he had faced significant difficulties due to skills like ‘Surprise Dance’ and other skill-enhanced movements.

Aiming itself was challenging, and the sluggish movements of the children were easily ridiculed by them.

“…… Really? Ha Leeha struggled against these guys? He scared everyone so much back at Gaza City just now…….”

“Well, it was like that back then. I didn’t realize there would be such a vast difference now.”

However, at present, even a sudden attack by five Miyaw assassins was not a threat to him—such was the stark difference in power levels.

“〈Distorted Vision〉 is definitely a cheat skill!”

Besides the stats, the skill that significantly raised the quality of his combat was indeed the 〈Eye That Pierces Through〉.

No matter how diligently someone tried to hide or launch a surprise attack, if he saw it coming, dealing with it was easy.

From the start, it was evident that apart from the five who had been continuously following him, there was another, a user among the assailants.

“Hiding isn’t a bad idea, but if you plan to attack, I’ll really counterattack. So, if you want to come out, do it now. If not, it’d be better to go back. If you’re embarrassed to be caught, just stay hidden and don’t attack.”

Ha Leeha swiftly pulled the bolt and aimed at the tree on the right.

Simultaneously, the members of the Midnight Circus showed a flinch in their expressions.

“K-… Kihihi― what’s this? Amusing, really amusing!”

“Why pretend it’s not? I can see every one of you! If you’re coming down, come down quickly, Petyr!”

Tukwhaaaaaaaaaaa────……!

The moment Ha Leeha pulled the trigger, the flow of mana on the tree vanished.

However, it was not because of Ha Leeha’s attack that it disappeared.

‘Fast!’

Ha Leeha tried to cloak his actions from external perception from aiming to firing. Although Petyr had been prepared for an attack, the timing to dodge was impeccable.

“Puhihihi! This, this is fun! Totally a surprise! Ha Leeha walked right into it on his own!”

“Move and I’ll kill you, cat-human.”

Petyr’s voice came from behind Ha Leeha, just a little distance away. Blaugrunn was already aiming mana gathered at his fingertips at Petyr.

‘Behind? When did he―’

Ha Leeha turned around hastily.

Petyr was approaching with both hands raised in surrender. If Blaugrunn hadn’t been there, Ha Leeha would have been in trouble.

It proved that Petyr still held his position solidly.

His movement was distinctively different from Kidd’s ‘Quick Foot.’

It was close to sudden teleportation, like Bluebeard’s magic profession’s Blink spell.

‘Well, that’s fortunate. This level is just right.’

Ha Leeha shrugged his shoulders.

“Huhuhu…… As expected. The top ten aren’t just for show. Petyr-ssi, shall we have a little chat?”

The more unpredictable Petyr’s movements were, the higher the chances that he could fulfill Ha Leeha’s current wishes.

“What chat? If it’s about ‘Achievement Retrieval’, I’m always willing! Buhih!”

“Are you crazy? I’m not dying for you guys. That’s not what I mean.”

One of the pieces of information Ha Leeha inquired about from the Holy Grill was precisely this.

『Midnight Circus』 The current location of their mobile tent.

That was because the leader of the 『Midnight Circus』 was there.

Petyr’s expression shifted slightly.

“Puhihit… Not at all a surprising joke.”

“It’s not a joke.”

Ha Leeha’s voice turned more serious.

Petyr’s reaction was understandable. Ha Leeha was currently marked as a target by the 『Midnight Circus』.

It would be logical for them to think that a targeted individual coming to meet their marker aimed to assassinate the Ring Master.

“Do you not know that the Ring Master can’t be seen by just anyone? Buhit! Even if Nguyen came back, you couldn’t see him.”

For an assassination group like the Midnight Circus, it was reasonable to assume Ha Leeha intended to assassinate the Ring Master.

“Biyemi-ssi got ‘character deleted’, so it’s natural not to recognize a new character. Do you want to keep making weird word plays? Forcing my way in won’t be good, so I’m asking ‘nicely’ like this.”
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Ha Leeha fiddled with the Black Bass.

Click!

As the metallic sound echoed, the eyes of the surrounding Miyaw, who had been stiff, quickly darted around.

Rather than observing etiquette, it felt like an intimidation through the pressure of power, but Middle Earth was originally that kind of game.

“Petyr-ssi is the vice-captain of the Midnight Circus. Surely, you have the authority to let us meet the captain, right?”

Petyr’s eye wrinkles deepened further, but the Miyaw soon regained a smiling expression.

“Buihi! Fine. I’ll guide you. But no dragons.”

“Ha Leeha-nim! Without me—”

“It’s okay. Let’s go.”

—Are you sure about this?

Blaugrunn immediately whispered to Ha Leeha. Ha Leeha looked at him for a moment and nodded.

—They can’t kill me. Wait here.

—Understood.

Ha Leeha was confident.

Petyr still gave a brief glance at the Miyaw assassins who were in an abnormal status.

No special conversation took place, but Ha Leeha could tell that they were whispering something to each other.

“Buphit! Shall we go? Going? Gonna go?”

“Hmm, talking to you gives me a headache.”

Ha Leeha followed Petyr who walked ahead.

Whether it was a concept or an actual mental illness, Petyr’s way of speaking was something Ha Leeha could never get used to.


* * *

Walking a bit further through what he thought was a forest, Ha Leeha encountered a clearing.

The large mobile tent spread out there was enough to make Ha Leeha’s heart race.

‘It really looks like a circus tent you see in movies. Come to think of it, there is a circus troupe in Daebudo too… Maybe I’ll visit there next time—’

Scree…!

Pssshhhhh──────

“Whoa!”

It was then that he heard the mechanical sound that blew away all distractions.

In addition to the sound of gas escaping from something, there was the noise of metal joints that seemed to need lubrication.

Of course, it wasn’t just the sound that was surprising.

“… Wow…”

“Bupihit, surpriiiiiise!”

Petyr struck a pose proudly, pointing at the mobile tent. The noise became louder, creating a complex harmony.

The reason for all this was simple: the mobile tent was ‘moving on its own.’

“The reason you can’t find the Midnight Circus tent… right? It’s a show for the audience, but no audience can come here… Because if even one outsider is detected, the tent moves.”

“Bingo, bingo, b, I, n, G, o!”

Petyr jumped and clapped his feet in excitement.

Ha Leeha also knew information about the Midnight Circus.

However, he was quite surprised as he had never imagined it would move in such a steampunk manner.

‘Even Madam Ju couldn’t pinpoint the exact location because of this. All she could do was track the movements of the Midnight Circus’s assassins and make educated guesses based on overlapping paths.’


After enjoying the look of surprise on Ha Leeha’s face, Petyr finally shouted at the moving tent.

The tent, which had been moving by itself, slowed down and stopped, and Petyr clapped twice into the air.

Clap, clap—!

As soon as that artificial sound came out, the entrance of the tent lifted. Inside, it was infinitely dark, and nothing could be seen.

“Bupihit, even Chiyou has never entered our stage.”

“I’m excited. I guess this makes me the first audience?”

“That’s right! Buphit, the first audience!”

Petyr, seemingly pleased with Ha Leeha’s phrasing, looked thrilled.

As Ha Leeha stepped into the dark mobile tent, the lights came on.

Wel─────Come──!

Fireworks exploded, fanfare sounded, and countless paper flowers scattered.

“Woohoooo, the land of dreams and hopes!”

“A place full of joy and surprises!”

Miyaw swinging on trapezes showcased tricks to each other, and there were those who stood on big balls doing handstands, juggling solely with their feet.

‘Unless you belong to the Midnight Circus, almost no one has seen this scene, right?!’ Ha Leeha looked at the scene as if he were at a real circus. It was already quite fascinating to see so many Miyaws, whether they were users or NPCs, but to see the Midnight Circus doing acts like a ‘real’ circus was astounding.

“However, your eyeballs will disappear!”

“Uwahihihihit!”

Of course, it was not a kind circus. With a bizarre greeting, the lights inside started to dim gradually. Although it was possible to see inside, the lighting was dimmer than expected, and Ha Leeha could observe their figures cool-headedly again.

Even those on the trapeze were attacking each other amidst the chaos. The Miyaws juggling while doing handstands were tossing and catching ‘daggers’.

“This is… a skill training ground.”


“Buhihit, you catch on quick! Very good!”

They wouldn’t perform a show for absent spectators. They were making bloody efforts to attack each other amidst the chaotic atmosphere or to get used to surprise attacks like those of Petyr. In the middle of them, Ha Leeha spotted a Miyaw with a large hat and a protruding belly. Clearly, the figure who looked like a Ringmaster was raising his staff in greeting towards Ha Leeha. Ha Leeha was about to bow but quickly glanced around. he Ringmaster of the Midnight Circus was the leader of an assassination group. Could such a person… really look like that? A pot-bellied man like that?

“The assassin hero of the Second Human-Demon War?”

If he had no information, he might have been fooled. But Ha Leeha had the information from the Holy Grill.

“Reaching there definitely won’t be easy. More importantly, he only talks to those he acknowledges. Surely… he’ll test you, Ha Leeha.”

He already heard this information from Jyu. Even if Petyr introduced them, he expected there would be something. It was just that their actions were faster than his predictions.

Ha Leeha turned swiftly while raising the muzzle of his gun.

“Kuh—”

Bang——!

The moment he felt a strong force striking his muzzle, the enemy’s attack was already aimed at his neck. When he was attacked holding the trigger and aiming, his right arm had to move almost as one with the Black Black. It meant it was flung up to the point where any defense was impossible.

But what about his left hand?

‘With that pattern, it’s tedious!’

After breaking the guard, they target the vital point! It was a known fact that the first attack pattern of an assassin was almost common. He quickly lowered the left hand that was gripping the muzzle to his waist and grabbed the dagger stuck in his belt.

‘Hup!’ Cheng——!

Sparks flew as the dagger clashed with claws.

“Hm, you might have caught me off guard before. You’re the Ringmaster, right?”

Ha Leeha’s eyes scanned the surroundings quickly. Given his position as a guest brought by the deputy Petyr, who would dare attack him here?

“Someone higher than Petyr.”

Ultimately, it could only be the Ringmaster.

“You’re quick.”

“My agility is much higher than most assassins.”

His agility stat alone was almost at the top level in Middle Earth. The Ringmaster withdrew the claws that were in a standoff and attempted to strike again.

『Myong myong!』

‘… Hmm?’

If it weren’t for the sharp object touching his waist and thigh, he would have continued testing Ha Leeha.

* * *

“If you move, I’ll stab you. No joke.”

Ha Leeha glared at the Miyaw presumed to be the Ringmaster.

Drawing all of his opponent’s attention towards himself, Jellypong leveraged only a fraction of its tentacles.

It was tantamount to an attack arriving from the ‘blind spot of perception.’

Unless one knew what Jellypong was or understood its capabilities, very few could fend off Jellypong’s surprise counterattack in close combat.

“Buhiit? Bpuheuhut, what a surprise!?”

Petyr, who stood beside Ha Leeha, was no different.

Even a third party observing nearby failed to fully capture Jellypong’s movements, so how would the attacker fare?

The person who attacked Ha Leeha also looked at him with wide eyes.

“An unexpected defense… no, should I call it an attack?”

It was a low and rather heavy voice.

Finally, Ha Leeha could scrutinize his face closely.

The Ringmaster of the Midnight Circus was from the Miyaw race.

With hair entirely black, eyes exuding a unique ferocity akin to a ‘black panther’, he was a remarkable Miyaw.

Judging by his appearance alone, he exuded an aura sharper and more overwhelming than any leader Ha Leeha had ever encountered.

“But—”

Pop—!

“Jellypong! Block it—”

『Myaaaaang!』

His backflip was faster than Jellypong’s thrust.

Since he must not kill, Jellypong targeted non-vital parts as instructed by Ha Leeha, yet it couldn’t even pierce those areas.

‘Quick. As expected of the assassination hero. Even when aiming for non-vital areas, to avoid focusing on defense—’

Even the relatively less defended areas were perfectly evaded by him. Should Ha Leeha employ another attack method to subdue him?

The moment Ha Leeha tried to lift the Black Bass, he leaped and grabbed the grip of the aerial trapeze hanging from the ceiling.

With an immensely relaxed expression, the Ringmaster looked down at Ha Leeha, who immediately aimed at him.

‘Dodging in midair should be harder, this time for sure—’

“You can’t evade this time! If this is a test, it’s over!”

He couldn’t dodge Ha Leeha’s firing midair!

At that very moment, Ha Leeha’s only concern was, ‘What if the Ringmaster dies from my bullet?’ which demonstrated the perfect timing of his aim.

Perhaps the Ringmaster also realized this.

Still with a serious face and in a low voice, he spoke to Ha Leeha.

“You’ve grown much. Surprise… passed.”

“…What? Grown?”

The fact that a sound similar to Petyr’s came from him was unfortunate to Ha Leeha.

The information from the Holy Grill wasn’t wrong.

It just lacked a bit.

The Ringmaster of the Midnight Circus wasn’t testing if Ha Leeha could evade or perfectly counterattack him.

“I want that pudding.”

The test subject was, as per their motto, ‘surprising the Ringmaster’.

* * *

He released the grip of the aerial trapeze and landed.

The grip had to consider the grandeur of the person on the trapeze, so it was at quite a height even in this large tent.

‘To end with a backflip and leap up there was amazing, but the landing—’

The landing made no sound at all.

‘—is even more astonishing.’

Even if he had fallen onto a cushion or safety net, the landing wouldn’t have been as silent as his current one.

He slowly walked towards Ha Leeha, nodding his head.

“A prey running into my mouth is refreshing, and this kind of defense is impressive. Fun.”

It was an expression not enjoyable at all, with a voice that made it unclear if there was any sincerity.

Was this also a joke?

Hearing his baritone voice making his character even more perplexing, Ha Leeha momentarily hesitated but soon collected himself and greeted him.

“Ahem, nice to meet you.”

“This is not our first time, is it? Haven’t you killed countless of our members, Ha Leeha?”

Ha Leeha tensed up.

He came alone this far as he was confident the Ringmaster would listen to his proposal.

‘But in this combat mode, it looks like I’ll have to engage once more to make him listen.’

He wouldn’t be easily struck down by Jellypong’s counterattack now that his attack patterns were revealed.

Resolving to show his strength even if it meant using 〈combat mode〉, Ha Leeha answered him.

“…They were targeting my life. And my life is more precious than theirs.”

As soon as Ha Leeha finished his sentence, he extended his hand. Ha Leeha was about to command Jellypong.

“Fair point. I am Ringmaster Quidam.”

“Jelly— What?”

But it was merely an offer for a handshake. Hastily holding back Jellypong, Ha Leeha looked bewildered.
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“Quidam. Ah, please don’t doubt it. It is indeed my real name. Who in the world would name their child ‘Someone’, you ask? That would be my parents.”

“… Pardon?”

The Ringmaster of the Midnight Circus, who oversaw the entire circus, introduced himself without hesitation, sharing even the backstory of his name.

Ha Leeha was surprised. It wasn’t that the name meant ‘Someone’, but rather the utterly random timing of the introduction. Just moments ago, the Ringmaster had been creating intense tension. Then, suddenly, a self-introduction?

‘What on earth is this?’

The moment he said, “That makes sense”, it was the beginning of everything. There was a battle fought with their lives on the line, and since Ha Leeha had won, there was no need to raise the issue now.

“Heheh, surprise~!”

“… This is quite a surprise indeed.”

Petyr approached Ha Leeha, chuckling. Even most people who joined the Midnight Circus from the Miawoo race struggled to adapt to Quidam’s peculiar manner of speaking. How could an outsider possibly adjust and not be taken aback?

Petyr seemed to thoroughly enjoy this.

“Table. Chair. Tea.”

────, ────, ────!

With each word Quidam uttered, an item appeared before him. Whether someone had quickly placed them or they had suddenly popped out, Ha Leeha couldn’t tell.

‘What is this? Saying it was fast would be an understatement. It’s almost like—’

Magic. But could this be called magic? Suddenly, he wondered if the entire space inside the tent was under Quidam’s control.

‘Quite possibly, since he is the Ringmaster, the highest authority here. But it’s not just because of that…’

A sense of deja vu. Ha Leeha felt he had experienced this kind of atmosphere before.

As he looked around, Quidam gestured to the chair opposite him.

“The fun of the circus begins with surprises. Please, have a seat.”

As Ha Leeha walked towards the chair, he spoke candidly about the atmosphere he was sensing.


“It feels like Peklo City, the place Pyrot-Cocri used to call ‘inside her belly’.”

Quidam, who had been sipping his tea, paused. The black panther’s eyes locked onto Ha Leeha.

‘Don’t lose your composure. I’m here as a client.’

Ha Leeha took the seat opposite Quidam and picked up the teacup. He needed to keep in mind the reason for his visit to this group of assassins.

“I’ve not heard that name in a long time. Pyrot… Cocri… And you’re speaking as if you’ve been to Peklo City—”

“I have.”

He was here to talk to the hero assassin of the Second Human-Demon War.

Pfft—!

Quidam spat his tea all over Ha Leeha.

“Surprise…”

It was apparent from his expression that he hadn’t done it on purpose.

With just these early remarks, Ha Leeha foresaw that things would go smoothly.

“I have a request, Quidam-nim.”

Ha Leeha rummaged through his bag. Filled with curiosity, Petyr stood behind Quidam.

‘Jellypong, wipe my face. This isn’t considered an attack, right? It’s quite hot.’

Before anything else, Ha Leeha wanted to wipe the tea trickling down his cheeks.

* * *

One of the pieces of information requested for investigation by the Holy Grill was about Pyrot-Cocri.

The data that Ju examined included everything from myths about the Demon King’s Fragment to points assumed to be the origins of Pyrot-Cocri, and most importantly, her attack patterns and main areas of activity during the 2nd Human-Demon War.

As soon as Quidam saw the drawing depicting Pyrot-Cocri, he frowned.


During the war, the Demon King’s Fragments would have elicited special feelings from the NPCs involved in those settings.

“I entered the Peklo City. There… I saw Pyrot-Cocri, who was still sealed.”

“Why not just bring everyone there then?”

Quidam, having already surmised what Leeha might say, asked first.

Leeha responded calmly.

“That isn’t possible. At least, I didn’t know Pyrot-Cocri enjoyed strategic battles that much. All the entrances to the Peklo City are currently sealed. Even you, Quidam-nim, would not be able to penetrate them.”

“At least two Ancient Dragons of elder status? Considering how many dragons wanted to devour Pyrot-Cocri back then, it might have been the Platinum Dragon I saw from a distance.”

Even the leader of a group is not just any ordinary mind. Let alone the head of an assassination group targeting Leeha.

Watching Quidam speak as if he already knew about Leeha’s connection with Bahamut, Leeha nodded without giving a specific answer and continued speaking.

“Currently, undead imbued with Pyrot-Cocri’s powers are roaming around. I don’t know how strong they are or what percentage of her original power they can use. I have the analytical data on Pyrot-Cocri’s attack patterns and the skills and magic she used during the 2nd Human-Demon War.”

“I already know, as I’ve experienced it before.”

“Then you must understand what I’m about to say.”

Quidam picked up his teacup as Leeha spoke.

Sipping the tea, Quidam looked back at Leeha.

“… It’s an assassination request that reminds me of 20 years ago.”

“This time, it will be better. It’s not a direct assassination request for Pyrot-Cocri herself…”

This was the reason Leeha came here.

How should he handle Pyrot-Cocri’s clones or the undead imbued with her power?

He couldn’t allow such a fearsome monster to wander the north of Shazrashian.

And should he be the first to attack?


With many members already sent to the New Continent for the Sacred Alliance’s matters, it wouldn’t be easy.

Should Leeha go alone or team up with Bahamut?

It would be fortunate if Bahamut intervened, but there was a higher chance Leeha would struggle alongside the other dragons.

Most importantly, they must not die.

If Leeha fell to her, an undead with 120% of Leeha’s capabilities and skills would be born.

In other words, the aim was to minimize the risks while eliminating Pyrot-Cocri’s clones.

“Track and assassinate the clone of Pyrot-Cocri or the undead imbued with her powers.”

They had already faced the Demon King’s Fragment once, and couldn’t they use a specialist to kill an individual rather than a group?

Quidam downed his tea in quick succession.

After pondering Leeha’s words for a long while, he finally spoke.

“And the fee for the request?”

“I understand you don’t take requests based merely on money.”

Leeha scratched his head.

“Hmm.”

“I can offer you information on potential locations where Pyrot-Cocri’s clones might appear… and the honor of being known as the one who assassinated Pyrot-Cocri’s clone. The name of the 『Midnight Circus』 would grow even more.”

“Haha! You plan to get honor for free!? Interesting, I like it!”

Petyr laughed heartily beside Quidam. However, Quidam’s face remained serious.

Leeha, staring back at him, also showed no sign of jest.

Not only was he not someone who could be moved by money from the start, but there was also no reason to offer money.

“Chief?”

Petyr, sensing the serious atmosphere, asked with concern. Quidam did not look at him.

“Give me some time to think.”

“In the meantime, she will move. I would appreciate a quick answer.”

Ha Leeha stood up from his seat. On his way out, he didn’t need Petyr’s guidance.

Petyr had no intention of offering any guidance either.

The Vice-leader of the Midnight Circus glared at the Head without a trace of a smile.

* * *

Petyr was also a Rank 5 user.

Just hearing the name Pyrot-Cocri, seeing Ha Leeha’s proposal, and witnessing Quidam’s reaction were enough for him to grasp the gravity of the situation.

It wasn’t until Ha Leeha was completely outside of the tent that he sat facing Quidam.

‘A surprise won’t work on the Demon King’s Fragment. As the chief repeatedly said…’

‘It’s something I said to train you guys. You can’t kill the Demon King’s Fragment with your current skills.’

‘Pphit! Then… does that mean you’re accepting this?’

They spoke without making a sound.

Lip-reading was a basic skill for an assassin, and doing it without moving their lips was an essential skill to avoid revealing their intentions to other assassin trainees and members of the Midnight Circus nearby.

In Petyr’s case, it was a ‘skill’, and there was no problem with communication.

However, he was dissatisfied that Quidam wasn’t answering his question.

Petyr’s expression began to change slowly.

The usual insane grin he showed in front of Ha Leeha and other users had completely vanished.

‘I know very well how the chief feels about the Demon King’s Fragments. That’s why you trained me… no, trained me and Nguyen.’

‘I had no other choice. The Demon King’s Fragments can’t be captured with a single life. Nguyen had to be sacrificed.’

〈Legendary Nine Lives of a Cat〉.

A legendary item that could store lives had once triggered a fierce competition between Miyaw assassin Biyemi and Petyr. In the end, only one of them survived to obtain the item.

‘I know, pphit, I know. Thanks to that, nguyen is walking a new path.’

The condition for the loser was character deletion.

The reason Nguyen/Biyemi could exist was because Biyemi’s rapid growth was influenced by accumulated knowledge from the past.

‘I’m glad you know. The Demon King’s Fragment can’t be captured with a single life. Which means… it’s impossible for me alone, Petyr.’

‘Pphit?’

Quidam’s lips curled slightly.

Petyr felt his heartbeat quicken.

He had joined the Midnight Circus for surprises and had seen that expression on the chief’s face several times!

He already predicted what words would come next behind that expression.

‘There will be no audience. The only performers will be you and me. But I firmly believe it will be the most splendid in the world. Will you help raise the curtain on that circus, vice-leader?’

Whhooooosh!

At that moment, a hologram window appeared in front of Petyr’s eyes.

『The Person Responsible for the Circus-1』

Description: “It’s also my personal revenge. I still can’t forget the one I missed right in front of my eyes 20 years ago. Even if I let go of all the other Demon King’s Fragments… Pyrot-Cocri is mine. Because of that thing, I had to carry the burden of becoming the chief when I was just a vice-leader. Will you help me, Petyr?”

The Head of the Midnight Circus, Quidam, seeks revenge for events from 20 years ago. However, he understands that no matter how weak a clone may be, Pyrot-Cocri’s abilities and strength are not ordinary.

What can you do for the Midnight Circus?

Objective: Investigate the previous head of the Midnight Circus within 24 hours

Reward: The Person Responsible for the Circus-2

Condition for Failure: If the time limit is exceeded

Penalty for Failure: 『Radiant Only in the Dark, Ringmaster』 Quest Canceled

Quest Route Restored to Original

Will you accept?

“Pphit, pphat, pphihihitty!”

Petyr couldn’t help but burst into laughter.

It took him only about three seconds to press the accept button.
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“Do you really think those people can do it?”

“Hmm… well.”

Leeha pursed his lips and continued speaking.

“Blaugrunn, you might find them unreliable… but they’re not pushovers. Especially the one called ‘Chief’… he might not be someone you should underestimate.”

Blaugrunn began to flare up in anger.

“Argh! Just because those cats are a bit fast, do you think they can do something to me? Ha Leeha-nim, you really underestimate me too much!”

“Haha, I’m half-joking! But those people, they’re masters of assassination. They were incredibly active during the Second Human-Demon War. Ah! What was it? Even after that, assassins from that place, called 『Midnight Circus』, stole a dragon’s egg.”

Leeha’s words were meant to calm Blaugrunn and also inform him of their capabilities.

It was something Biyemi had once mentioned to Leeha.

‘Well, even if it wasn’t Biyemi, someone else must have said it.’

He didn’t know who succeeded in that quest, but ‘Stealing the Dragon’s Egg’ was indeed an existing quest.

Leeha’s words had an immediate effect.

Blaugrunn stared at him with wide eyes.

“…No way. They stole a dragon’s egg? That’s a life-threatening task, even with multiple lives. More importantly… how did they get past the dragon’s surveillance?”

“Hmm. Maybe they did have multiple lives. And they’re masters of assassination. Getting past the surveillance is―”

“No! It’s different from normal. Ha Leeha-nim, you know well that our species don’t have large numbers.”

“That… is true.”

Leeha knew this well, having attended the gatherings of both metallic and chromatic dragons.

Even the chromatic dragons, who were forcibly brought there, had around thirty adult dragons. The metallic ones had similar numbers.

‘Deaths caused by raids are compensated, but deaths in quests or game scenarios are not.’


In other words, the number could decrease from around thirty. That was an extremely small number to represent an entire species.

This indicated just how earnest the efforts of dragons to preserve their species were.

“It’s not just instinct. The protection of offspring is a thorough act by the entire species. In other words, to steal an egg from a single dragon—be it metallic or chromatic—you’d have to consider the entire species your enemy, evade their surveillance, and if you succeed, you’d be chased for life.”

“Wow… for life? By the entire species?”

“Yes. If a human dared to steal a dragon’s egg, this place would already be—”

“So that’s why they keep moving!?”

“―Excuse me?”

“It’s not just… to avoid detection!”

The reason their mobile tents moved or hid so quickly!

‘Staying in one place? That would be like advertising the base of an assassination group—come raid us! So they move around to survive. Especially because of the dragon’s pursuit!?’

Although Midnight Circus was not part of Minis, many of its users were from Minis.

Moreover, the areas they roamed were near Minis.

Most importantly, Blaugrunn didn’t know about the incidents involving the stolen egg. This meant the target was likely singular.

Leeha could roughly grasp how much the chromatic dragons despised Midnight Circus.

“Heh, like Blaugrunn said, those chromatic dragons, including ‘Onyx’, would go berserk. But they were still intact, right?”

“So that means they wouldn’t have been able to steal it. Humans? That’s absurd.”

“Okay, okay. You can think that way. But if you consider that they have skills close to that level… you’ll understand that they are qualified for this job, right?”

Blaugrunn made a sullen face and did not answer Leeha’s question.

He didn’t want to admit it, but he had to. He soon said he would return to his lair.

“I should go study the gigantic marine creatures. Ha Leeha-nim, you handle those skilled guys on your own.”


“Hey, why are you sulking again? Well, I guess it’s time for me to go around alone anyway”, said Leeha.

“Are you really going to travel alone?”

Blaugrunn asked, showing some disappointment since Leeha didn’t try to stop him. However, Leeha wasn’t teasing him.

“I also need to look into ‘charging’. All the information discovered about the Black Bass from the Holy Grail was about the previous version anyway.”

The only information they gathered was about the ‘Legendary Black Bass: SASR’, which Leeha used extensively. Even the Intelligence guild had no data on the ‘awakened’ state. In other words, he’d have to face it head-on himself.

“Don’t go north.”

“Yeah, I won’t. Until the Midnight Circus contacts me, I’m not going anywhere. Either I’ll stay near the buoy, or I’ll cross over to the New Continent.”

There might be a clone of Pyrot-Cocri searching for him. It would be harder to react swiftly to danger without Blaugrunn around. Leeha needed to carry out various tests for charging, and he regretted having to give up on the northern regions, but he had no other choice.

“Understood. Then I’m heading back to my lair. If I get a call from the Lord or any information about Pyrot-Cocri from our kind, I’ll inform you immediately.”

“Yes, please do. And let me know if you discover anything interesting while investigating the Gigantic Mimic.”

“Of course. Travel carefully, Ha Leeha-nim.”

When Leeha took out the crystal ball, Blaugrunn also prepared for teleportation. His determination to ensure Leeha’s safe movement was evident. Feeling grateful for Blaugrunn’s concern, Leeha activated the crystal ball. Two purplish lights simultaneously flashed in an unexplored area near Minis’s outskirts.

***

“Good morning! It’s a great day!”

Kijung greeted enthusiastically.

“Kijung-ssi!”

“Welcome, Kay.”

As usual, Kijung logged into Middle Earth with energetic greetings. The guild members of Byulcho, who were already logged in, welcomed him warmly. Before Kijung could finish his greetings, Biyemi ran up to him.

“Kijung-ssi, a messenger came from Ezwen. The Pope’s office is calling for you.”

“A messenger from Ezwen?”


Kijung murmured, tilting his head.

“Why would the Pope’s office call, not the Sacred Alliance?”

“Maybe Ha Leeha-ssi found something again? Didn’t you hear anything?”

Biyemi asked with sparkling eyes, but Kijung could only tilt his head in confusion.

“Leeha hyung… he’s logged out right now. I don’t know much. I just woke up and logged in… maybe he left a message?”

“Hehe, you should at least check your smartphone. You’re a real addict”, teased Biyemi.

“There’s someone who logs out even less than me! I guess I can call, but if the Pope’s office is calling, they’ll tell me when I get there.”

Dodging the subtle jab, Kijung laughed.

Biyemi seemed disappointed that she couldn’t learn anything new immediately, but she quickly regained her energy.

“Then hurry up and go!”

“Alright. By the way, Hyein hyung, any issues with Ghibrid or Chimera?”

Currently, Byulcho’s role was to defend the frontline in the New Continent’s center alongside the Paleos. The difference now was that, unlike the past when they guarded vast, lonely areas, they were now joined by high-level knights dispatched from various countries!

“Recently, chimeras started appearing one by one. I’m not sure if it’s because they think it’s dangerous to scout using manticores or if they’re trying to conserve them… But one thing is certain—the number of small skirmishes has slightly increased compared to last week.”

Hyein responded.

“Still, if only chimeras come, it’ll be easier to handle them.”

“Of course. It’s already known that chimeras are weak against fire. The fact that Ram Hwayeon strategically placed the flame attribute paladins of Red Wood at the border is working remarkably well.”

Their cooperation continued seamlessly.

Especially because Byulcho shared its expertise without reservation, Byulcho received significant recognition from everyone guarding the border between the New Continent’s west and east.

“Understood. I’ll head to Ezwen immediately.”

Even Kijung had no idea about the small expedition heading east.

This was because Ewin, the General Commander of the Sacred Alliance, strictly controlled the information for protection.

Therefore, Kijung could not hear anything from Luger or Kidd and only learned the news upon reaching Ezwen’s Papal Office.

The Pope looked at Kijung with an unusually serious expression.

“… Pyrot-Cocri? That is—”

“The third Demon King’s Fragment, Exorcism Cardinal.”

Kijung wondered what message Leeha might have left. He cursed himself for not checking it before connecting.

* * *

“Since Ha Leeha-nim first discovered it, even dragons intervened, but they couldn’t stop her from emerging into the world. Despite Bahamut, the Platinum Dragon and Lord of Metal Dragons, getting involved.”

Pope Urban II spoke in a slow but clear voice.

Even though Cardinal Romero had become Pope Urban II, his habit of using honorifics when addressing Kijung or Leeha remained unchanged.

“So, you’re saying that the third Demon King’s Fragment has awakened?”

Kijung appeared greatly flustered.

Considering how much they struggled in the central New Continent due to the weakened Ghibrid, it was understandable that his body tensed upon hearing news of a new Demon King’s Fragment.

The Pope shook his head with a faint smile.

“It seems it hasn’t awakened yet. Moreover, Bluebeard might not be aware of it, which means the Lord Ahlo has bestowed a glimmer of hope in this misfortune.”

Urban II and Kijung both let out a small sigh.

“Then, what’s the current situation?”

“According to Ha Leeha-nim and his comrades’ reports… They described it as an undead entity infused with the power of Pyrot-Cocri. The General Commander referred to it as a ‘clone’ capable of utilizing a significant portion of Pyrot-Cocri’s abilities.”

“A clone… I see.”

Kijung couldn’t help but furrow his brows. Which would be stronger: the powerless ‘main body’ Ghibrid or the empowered ‘clone’ Pyrot-Cocri?

“We can’t divert the Sacred Alliance’s forces here. Using paladins to search the northern Shazrashian may provoke suspicion… Even if we keep it secret from outside, it would inevitably be noticed within the Sacred Alliance, which means—”

“You mean the information could be leaked to any spies within the Sacred Alliance.”

Pope Urban II nodded in reply to Kijung’s comment.

It was impossible to gauge the extent of Chiyou’s information network. Moreover, the Sacred Alliance comprised numerous knightly orders from various nations.

Keeping such a significant movement hidden from everyone, especially at the scale of entire knightly orders, was practically impossible.

Chiyou was currently heading east of the New Continent with Kaztor, but they were unaware of this. Even if they knew, Chiyou’s intentions could be relayed to the NPC Bluebeard at any time through a whisper.

Thus, any suspicious movements would certainly be detected by Chiyou’s information network, which neither Kijung nor anyone in the Sacred Alliance could fully fathom. At that point, Bluebeard would certainly learn about ‘Pyrot-Cocri’.
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“I roughly understand why you called me.”

“That’s right. Since Pyrot-Cocri’s main body is sealed, our job is to eliminate its fragment before it encounters Bluebeard’s side. The person who can do this is…”

“The ‘Exorcism Cardinal’ and ‘Holy Knight’ should be me… right?”

“However, Master Kay-nim, you are a treasure of our Papacy and we cannot send you alone on a life-threatening mission.”

As the Pope saw the resolute look on Kijung’s face, he smiled once more.

“What?”

Tap… tap…

At that moment, the sound of shoes echoed from behind Kijung.

He quickly turned around, the sound resonating pleasantly against the marble floor of the papal audience chamber.

A woman wearing a ceremonial headdress and holding a staff shyly bowed her head to Kijung.

“Hello, Master Kay.”

“Huh? Saintess Raphaela? How are you here―”

“I was summoned suddenly as well. They told me to come when the person I would assist arrived… and now I am finally getting the full story.”

“Assist? You were unofficially ranked number one as a healer?”

Kijung asked with an awkward expression, and Raphaela nodded.

As Pope Urban II spoke while looking at the two, a holographic window popped up in front of Kijung and Raphaela.

『Turn Undead』

Explanation: “It will be a very tough battle. Please understand that it is impossible for the church to send many people. However, I must tell you that besides Raphaela-nim, there are others targeting Pyrot-Cocri. As the Exorcism Cardinal, you will have to judge the necessary personnel yourself. Then turn the undying general… no, his fragment, back to dust.”

Pope Urban II of Ezwen entrusted a mission that held the fate of the continent. Form a party of five members, track and destroy the clone of Pyrot-Cocri.

Content: Defeat the clone of Pyrot-Cocri


Reward: ?

Condition for Failure: If all party members die

In case of failure: Pyrot-Cocri’s resurrection

Do you accept?

Kijung looked astounded.

A party could be composed of five members.

That meant besides Kijung and Raphaela, only three spots were left.

‘Moreover, I can’t call someone like Alexander. We can’t even recall those who have just been dispatched to the ‘Eastern Expedition’, as the Pope mentioned―’

If the entire party dies, Pyrot-Cocri would resurrect?

Raphaela should also be seeing the holographic window in front of her.

Her eyes slowly turned towards Kijung.

‘Can you do this?’ her eyes seemed to ask, but Kijung didn’t know how to respond.

‘Leeha hyung is… currently logged out… should I bring Bobae-ssi?’

Including himself, Bobae, Hyein, Raphaela, and Leeha.

Wouldn’t a party of five stand a chance?

‘Two ranged damage dealers, one mage… no, we need another melee fighter. Besides Tale hyung, who else could fit in? But how can a single party take down something like that?’

If Middle Earth was a game that didn’t give impossible quests, he could accept it with confidence.

However, how many quests had already been carried out with failure as the intended outcome?

There were quests in Middle Earth that had failed even with all users combined, so there was no guarantee that this quest wasn’t another trap.

“Master Kay… if you find it too burdensome…”


Raphaela subtly suggested declining the quest.

Kijung wavered for a moment at her concern but soon shook his head.

‘Someone has to do it. Passing it to others because I can’t do it isn’t right.’

Responsible as always, Kijung couldn’t do such a thing.

Most of all, if the ‘Exorcism Cardinal’ chosen directly by the Pope avoided it, who else could clear this quest?

Raphaela, known by the epithet of Saint, hadn’t seen the quest’s call or description until Kijung arrived.

It was already clear who the ‘main protagonist’ of this quest was.

“Hoo…”

He had to do it.

Directly.

Once he had decided on a direction, there was no need for further hesitation.

Just moments ago, Kijung’s face had been filled with worry and anxiety to the point of trembling, but it quickly brightened.

“Leave it to me, Your Holiness.”

“Of course… I believed in you.”

The Pope looked at Kijung’s face and stood up from his seat. Then, he knelt in front of his chair.

“Y-Your Holiness!”

The Pope’s personal guards and assistant cardinals quickly rushed to him, but the Pope did not stand.

Quietly, the murmuring sound he made spread gently.

With the light emanating from his body.

─────────────!


“Huh?”

“This is…”

The light seeped toward Kijung and Raphaela.

Pope Urban II cast a spell on you.

You received a limited-time buff―Prayer for the Trinity.

〈Prayer for the Trinity〉

Description: A prayer offered directly by Pope Urban II for those carrying out special missions. Until the mission is completed, despite his busy schedule, he will pray for the participants three times a day.

“May the strength, courage, and wisdom of Ahlo’s light be with you…”

Effect: Resistance to the status effect ‘Fear’ +50%

If the enemy includes undead, all stats increase by 15%.

10% additional damage when attacking undead

10% reduction in damage when hit by undead

Until this quest was completed―the fact that such a buff could be sustained continuously surprised no one more than Raphaela.

Chosen as the ‘Best Healer in Middle Earth’ through a global community vote, she held the nickname of Saintess along with the ‘unofficial’ title of the number one healer.

Even she couldn’t sustain such a high-level buff ‘continuously’.

“It seems amazing―is it really that incredible?”

“Just the resistance to status effects is insane, and with 10% additional damage and 10% damage reduction, plus a 15% stat increase in specific situations! Do you know what that means?! If a level 200 user gets this skill, the actual level increase from the total stat boost is at least 30 levels! Each effect would be impressive individually! Above all, this isn’t just for 10 or 15 minutes; it lasts until the quest is completed indefinitely―”

Raphaela continued to bombard Kijung with explanations in response to his clueless question.

“Right?”

All-stat increase? Damage reduction and additional damage?

Though Kijung answered, he became newly aware of the magnitude of the buff.

‘Well, how many people have actually experienced something like this? It’s a crazy skill that only comes from crazy items.’

Kijung fiddled with his shield and checked his character status window.

All stats increased meant ‘Constitution’ points also increased, which naturally meant his overall HP had risen.

‘Adding Dinosaurization to this… Furthermore, consider Pyrot-Cocri, who is also undead, implying the damage reduction effect… More importantly, rafaella is here. She’s as effective as three top-grade healers combined.’

Having checked his character’s stats, Kijung felt even more resolute.

Although he had not yet met Pyrot-Cocri, he knew there would be a chance of victory.

“Then, I’ll be off. Shall we go, rafaella?”

“Yes!”

Kijung walked out of the papal residence alongside Raphaela.

If it had been Leeha, he might have thought differently from Kijung. Even the Saintess Raphaela had overlooked one crucial fact.

To face the clone of Pyrot-Cocri, such a level of buff was necessary.

What did it mean?

However, neither of them knew anything about City of Pecro, nor had they ever met Pyrot-Cocri. They hadn’t even properly reviewed the records of the Second Demonic War, so there was a tendency to underestimate the situation a bit.

“Hmm, first we should consider the party member composition, right?”

“Before that, there’s something I’d like to ask… do you have a moment, Master Kay?”

“Oh? Yes? Of course.”

Kijung, who was focused on thinking about the party composition, and Raphaela, who was excited about the pope’s authority, contrasted sharply with the gloomy skies outside the Vatican.

* * *

The two headed to a café near the Vatican and began their discussion.

First, they needed to clearly understand each other’s fighting styles to devise a strategy against Pyrot-Cocri, which was the initial purpose of their meeting.

But that was only at the beginning.

Before long, the conversation started to diverge.

“As expected, being a pope must involve a huge range of skills. By the way, Master Kay, you’re the first user to become a ‘Cardinal’, right? Did you gain any skills from that?”

“Well, yes—I did get a few self-buffs for offense and defense.”

“Wow! I thought so. It’s times like these that make female healers feel so unfairly treated.”

“Why? Come to think of it, among Cardinals, there aren’t any women—”

“Not just Cardinals. There are no female Bishops or Archbishops either. Female healers might grow faster early on and have more skills than male healers, but in Ezwen, there are no key positions for them. The highest they can ascend to is the position of ‘Abbess’ of a great monastery. Even then, they have to compete with the male healers aiming for ‘Abbas’. Hasn’t anyone offered you the position of ‘Abbas’? In Minis, there’s a monastery where I’m actually competing for the position of head. If you could visit sometime—”

Kijung’s eyes widened in surprise.

Raphaela, with her nickname ‘Saintess’, always garnered immense popularity due to her gentle manner of speech and her nurturing presence that took care of her party members’ lives.

Seeing her casually chatting about parfaits was naturally unfamiliar.

‘The subject of the conversation is so materialistic—well, but she’s a gamer, not a real clergyperson…’

For Kijung, it was a double shock, once from her appearance and again from the content of her chatter.

It was clear to him that Raphaela, despite being called the Saintess, was deeply addicted to Middle Earth just like any other user.

“At least we’re lucky there’s no time limit on the quest. As long as we manage to kill Pyrot-Cocri somehow, there won’t be a failure penalty. In the worst case, it’s like having an insurance policy to avoid quest failure.”

“Huh? Oh, I see what you mean. But what do you mean by insurance?”

Raphaela had the uncanny ability to quickly switch topics after lamenting about her profession for a while.

Kijung felt dealing with her was more difficult than handling Bobae. Perhaps, he thought, it might be because he had spent considerable time with Bobae already.

‘I miss my Bobae… Women are too complicated!’

However, Raphaela’s words hit the mark every time, making it hard to outright ignore her.

In fact, this quest had only one failure condition.

The death of all party members.

As long as that was avoided, they wouldn’t face the ‘quest failure penalty.’

“One way is to keep one of our party members holed up in the town or even the Vatican itself. That way, we wouldn’t fail the quest—”

“No.”

“What? But—”

Her method was undeniably logical.

Quests didn’t only have success and failure.

Certain quests could sometimes be ‘canceled’ midway through.

Raphaela believed this quest was one of those cases. She thought that if a force other than themselves was targeting Pyrot-Cocri, they could join the fight and avoid the failure condition, making it a virtually foolproof method.

Yet, Kijung shook his head resolutely.

“I think this isn’t a quest that can be completed that way.”

“Then… do you mean all five of us should fight together?”

“Yes, I think that’s the direction this quest wants us to take.”

Kijung realized it was a fundamental difference between the roles of tank and healer.

Both professions were responsible for survival and safety.

Tanks ventured forward, embracing risks while ensuring survival and safety.

The party could only advance if the tank moved forward, leading to rewards for everyone.

Healers, being at the rear, must think about avoiding hazards while ensuring survival and safety— a direct opposition in approach to tanks.
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“But still… the risk—”

“It will be possible. Considering that His Holiness the Pope bestowed such a buff, and that all future party members will similarly be buffed… it surely means it’s a feasible quest, hence he’s pushing us forward.”

Kijung’s eyes sparkled as he looked at Raphaela.

Raphaela paused for a moment, surprised by Kijung’s words, then soon smiled faintly.

“… If an ordinary person had said that, I would have thought they were being extremely pretentious.”

“Pardon?”

“It’s because he’s an NPC. Showing such faith in Cardinal Romero, or rather, Pope Urban II… if it were anyone else, I’d think it was pretentious. But looking into Master Kay’s eyes, it doesn’t seem like it.”

“Wha!? Th-that Cardinal Romero is— ah, of course, he’s an NPC! It’s just that, you know, there’s a certain… character? Calling it a programmed personality feels a bit awkward, but anyway, that—”

“Pfft!”

Raphaela laughed, beating the table with her silver spoon.

Kijung, who had been rambling incoherently, finally shut his mouth.

His face was already red with embarrassment.

“Alright.”

“What?”

“If Master Kay’s faith were simple, he couldn’t have become the first user Cardinal and a 〈Holy Knight〉. The same goes for the Byulcho Guild. I believe there is a calculated faith behind it. It’s a bit unsettling, but we have no choice but to attempt this mission, even if it means risking our lives.”

Taken aback by Raphaela’s clear assertion, Kijung could not refute her.

‘I had no calculations behind it’, he thought, worried that saying so might change her attitude.

“Then where do we find Pyrot-Cocri? First—”

“Oh! I’ll take care of that.”

“Master Kay? Do you have any idea where to start?”


“Well, sort of. Raphaela-nim, please consider any remaining party formations. I also have a few in mind, so let’s reconvene and discuss. And if you have time, please check the Vatican Library for any materials on Pyrot-Cocri.”

Kijung stood up.

Raphaela watched him with a look that seemed to question whether he was the same person who had been struggling to speak just moments ago.

“Then, I’ll contact you again within two days in Middle Earth time.”

Kijung added Raphaela as a friend and quickly logged out.

As soon as he returned to reality, there was only one person he intended to find.

* * *

“So, Raphaela’s that kind of character? The saintess?”

– Saintess, my foot! Seriously, it’s no joke. Like, wow, I mean, what am I, an accountant? Even accountants wouldn’t calculate everything that meticulously.

“Do you even know what an accountant does?”

– Hyung! I’m a business major.

“… Just a moment ago, you were like, ‘an accountant?’ raising your tone, and now this.”

Leeha made light-hearted jokes with Kijung to lift the mood. Both of them laughed on the call, but their faces weren’t particularly bright.

‘The Pyrot-Cocri quest, huh…’

Leeha had already heard all the details about the quest from Kijung, and he too had the same initial thoughts as Raphaela.

‘No matter how much stronger Kijung has gotten… can one party take it down?’

Leeha carefully envisioned the situation.

While Kijung transformed and charged, others would attack, and Leeha would snipe when the opportunity arose?

‘The picture forms, but it’s impossible. Especially since they’ll know my location immediately, simply joining Kijung’s party would invite danger.’

– Hyung, are you really not going? Though I appreciate you giving me a hint on where Pyrot-Cocri might be…

“It’s not that I don’t want to… I’m just not sure yet. Like I said, I have a penalty. It’ll be the same when you’re tackling it. If party members die, it might not just be a simple death.”


It’s not just about losing allies. Those fallen allies would stand up as enemies.

Especially if he himself were the target?

‘It would be a nightmare for her to hunt me down, calling me her toy… it’s not just a regular monster, there’s no ‘absolute’ assumption here. There’s no guarantee of not dying.’

Leeha’s honest feelings were that he couldn’t bear the idea of creating an undead Ha Leeha with over 120% capabilities.

More importantly, he needed to raise Black Bass’s charge rate for 〈White Reaper〉.

Though he worried about Kijung, he had too little time left to get hung up on a problem with no clear solution.

― Alright, it’s unfortunate, but there’s nothing we can do. I need to get stronger so I can help you out later.

“Hehe, you’re a real professional kimchi soup drinker. Same goes for Pyrot-Cocri. I can’t join the party, but if you need any help, just let me know. I’ll shake down the Intelligence Guild and everywhere else for you.”

― Oh! Come to think of it, that’s a good idea! Then, hyung, just participate as a substitute.

Kijung’s voice brightened quickly.

“And I’ll talk to Petyr too. He’ll listen to my whisper. Same with Lee Jiwon.”

― Yeah. I’d appreciate it if you could do that. Raphaela belongs to Minis, so there won’t be any fights. If Lee Jiwon gets a quest to hunt Pyrot-Cocri as a second job change, that would be amazing.

“Keke, it won’t be that easy. Lee Jiwon has a low probability, but try persuading Petyr. Regardless of rankings, just bringing in Petyr would mean securing the Midnight Circus on our side.”

― I knew calling you was the right choice. This is more helpful than a fight.

Kijung’s admiration wasn’t mere flattery, causing Leeha to feel quite bashful.

“That’s enough, man. You’ll need to eat well and rest if you want to handle such quests without logging out.”

― I just woke up, but sure. You should get some sleep, hyung.

“Okay. I’m going to sleep now.”

Leeha logged out specifically to get some rest.

He needed to conserve his energy for a ‘grind’ to charge the Black Bass and to give some time to Quidam, the leader of the Midnight Circus.


He lay down after finishing his call with Kijung.

‘Bluebeard, Ghibrid, Pyrot-Cocri… Kaztor. Chiyou isn’t easy either.’

Who were his current enemies?

Who did he have to fight?

What did he need to do?

Leeha sighed and began categorizing his enemies. Compared to the past, it felt easier to organize his thoughts.

‘Indeed, it’s much better than before when everyone was scattered, and I didn’t know who was on whose side or what their goals were.’

They were gathered under the massive framework of the Demon King’s Fragment.

As long as they didn’t launch a massive invasion of the Western New Continent, they would be securing key bases somewhere in the Eastern New Continent, gathering chimera armies.

‘Thanks to the 〈Guerrilla〉 activities of the paleo and the 〈Sacred Alliance〉, I can predict the fronts… All the battles will happen around the Corrupted World Tree’s Forest.’

Looking at it that way?

‘It might actually be good that Kijung got the Pyrot-Cocri quest.’

There were people who could handle the old continent’s troubles.

Considering the success rate of the quest and compatibility with Pyrot-Cocri, it was better for users with holy power to take on the task.

Unless Gaza City faced a special threat, there was no need for Leeha to get involved on the old continent.

“Then I’ll…”

Leeha rolled over in his bed and closed his eyes.

“…head to the New Continent.”

Black Bass’s quest and pursuit of the enemies.

Leeha felt that this marked the beginning of a significant battle.

Meanwhile, Kijung reconnected to Middle Earth.

About 14 hours had passed in Middle Earth, and Raphaela had already recruited a member.

“Uh… that person is―”

“If we’re not just attacking the enemy’s lair but need to ‘find and kill’ someone, having this person with us will be a great help.”

Raphaela said, leaning on the shoulder of the woman next to her.

Even with her eyes covered, Kijung could tell what expression the woman had.

The woman, seemingly embarrassed, glanced around Kijung and his surroundings.

She wore a blindfold but didn’t appear hindered in gameplay.

A friend of Raphaela’s from their New Continent expedition.

“Rubini?”

Rubini, known as the Seer, 〈Doctor Doom〉 of the Oracle job, stood there.

“You don’t have to include me in the quest party. I’m satisfied if I can just be of help to you all. My combat skills aren’t exceptional… I’ll do my best to help you find Pyrot-Cocri.”

Listening to Rubini, Kijung showed a bewildered expression as Raphaela gave him a thumbs-up.

The party had only five members. And Rubini had sufficient abilities to join the party.

Despite this, Raphaela hadn’t called her to include her in the core group, but just to play the role of a ‘guide’?

‘Amazing! Does that mean the remaining slots will be filled with more definite and powerful combat personnel!?’

Thinking that Raphaela might be faster in calculations than anyone else, Kijung thanked Rubini.

“Thank you for speaking first. Even if you can’t be a party member, I’ll make sure to share the quest rewards with you, Rubini―”

“But, um… could I ask you something?”

“Yes?”

As Kijung hesitated to speak, Rubini interrupted him, mumbling.

Raphaela quickly tapped Luibini’s shoulder and laughed.

“That might not be the best thing to ask, nuna.”

“But, still― I’m curious…”

How could Luibini have been convinced to volunteer as an assistant?

Kijung tilted his head, listening to the conversation between the two women.

“Sure, ask anything. This isn’t exactly a safe quest, so it’s important to know if there’s any potential danger―”

“It’s not that. I mean, um…”

Just as Kijung was beginning to feel frustrated watching Luibini stammering, she finally got to the heart of the matter.

“Is… Ha Leeha-nim coming?”

“Excuse me?”

Kijung was momentarily flustered but then understood Luibini’s intention through Raphaela’s peculiar chuckle.

‘Hyung… you’re really lucky, aren’t you?’

One powerful ally had joined the quest to find Pyrot-Cocri.

* * *

The first thing Leeha checked when logging in was the charging rate.

Since confirming that Black Bass had awakened, it was the first time the in-game date had changed since then.

“Well, I expected it. Of course, that’s what they assumed. It was clear from the way they described it as waking up at over 30% and sleeping at under 10%…”

〈Awakened Black Bass (1st Enhancement – Magma)〉

(Non-tradable)

Additional Effect―3: Awakens when charge rate is over 30%

Sleeps when charge rate is under 10%

Charge Rate: 0%

“How could it drop to 0%?”

Not just a 1-2% drop but down to zero?

The decrease in charge rate was progressing faster than Leeha had anticipated.

‘The 4% it had was because we defeated the 〈Gigantic Moth〉. We got just 4% from defeating a field boss over level 300, and now it’s zero within a day―’

“Ha Leeha-nim! Over there―”

Boom! Boom! Boom!

“Yeah, I see it.”

Before Blaugrunn could finish speaking, Leeha fired at the monster he had spotted.

In the grassland about 330 meters away, the shell of a crawling Rhinodillo shattered.

When he first encountered a Rhinodillo, not even Luger’s attacks could penetrate its shell.

‘It wasn’t a skill attack, just a normal one but still, it implies that my regular attack now is stronger than Luger’s 『Pierce』 back then…’

Leeha listened to the Rhinodillo’s wail with mixed feelings.

“Annoying.”

Though it looked like an insect, it actually had an attack pattern similar to a rhino charging while standing.

For Leeha, who understood everything about the creature, killing it wasn’t particularly difficult.

Attacking it once to provoke it, then when it stood up, targeting its underbelly to eviscerate its intestines would do the trick.

Boom! Boom! Boom!

With the sound of gunfire, the massive body of the Rhinodillo collapsed.

Leeha tensed momentarily, scanning the surroundings but soon smiled contentedly.

‘It worked.’
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〈Veteran Adventurer〉

Description: You are not flustered by unfamiliar lands, creatures, or climates. Veteran experience allows you to perceive new situations as repeated scenarios through your personal experience. Your veteran nature will be revealed in lands teeming with real threats.

Effects: 20% reduction in physical penalties in rough terrains. 30% increased chance of automatically breaking the chain reaction when attacking grouped monsters. A buff earned from the achievement of surpassing 1,000 reputation in the New Continent!

‘If I had this in the perpetual snow mountains, I could’ve moved faster.’

Although it’s not resistance to the anomalies of the ice attribute, it does enhance actual physical actions. Literally, it’s a buff that enables smoother physical activities, such as walking through deep snow or desert sand.

The partial movement restrictions that existed despite the agility stat were now largely mitigated thanks to this new buff.

‘And the bonus of breaking the chain reaction of group monsters, that’s killer. Hehe.’

Group monsters, when one is attacked, typically cause a chain reaction involving nearby creatures. This was something Leeha experienced multiple times, whether fighting against Rhynodillos or in Kobold and Goblin villages.

While it didn’t completely eliminate the chain reaction, having a 30% chance to break it would be tremendously helpful when adventuring in “unfamiliar lands”, as the buff description suggested. The fact that Rhynodillos hadn’t appeared yet was proof of this.

“How’s the recharging going? Ha Leeha-nim, how’s the recharging?”

Blaugrunn asked Leeha with a thoughtful smile.

Leeha’s face suddenly turned gloomy.

“Yes, it’s now certain. It’s not related to levels, situations, or even the continent. Whether it’s Brass Golems or Basilisks being field bosses, it doesn’t matter if they’re regular monsters or field bosses…”

They had set up various conditions and hypotheses, performing every test to boost the recharge rate. In the end, the answer was clear.

The hypothesis that had flashed in Leeha’s mind at first sight turned out to be correct.

“Whether Black Bass had awakened or not… the premise we need to accept is that *the recharge rate does not increase with monsters I’ve already defeated*.”

“Haa… How many monsters would Ha Leeha be hunting for the first time?”

“With the Gigantic Mimic incident, it’s clear that the monster level must also be significant… It’s not feasible to hunt every petty monster in the Old Continent. This is madness.”

There must still be monsters Leeha hadn’t hunted in the Lope Continent. Places like hidden hunting grounds in Minis, or dungeon caves near the coastline of Kraven, which Leeha hadn’t visited.

However, considering the user levels in those areas, the monster levels would be too low.


If the values were inadequate, recharging through ‘labor’ was unthinkable from the beginning. The fact that 4% of recharge vanished overnight suggested considering the possibility of a 5%-10% daily decrease.

“The answer was determined from the beginning. At least we’ve verified it. Let’s go.”

“To the East… you mean?”

“Yes. With the clues left by Luger and Kidd. We must hurry down that path… and I have someone I want to meet.”

Aside from the tests on the recharge rate, there was also a question surfaced during the conversation with Bottleneck.

‘How far did Elizabeth decipher it? At least assuming she reached this level…’

There was an NPC who used 『Black Bass』 before. Before learning the curve shot and before Toon regained its full power, elizabeth had mentioned 『Black Bass』 in her brief duel with Leeha.

‘That’s as far as you’ve managed to decipher, she said. Back then, she even used multi-warhead bullets.’

Since then, Leeha had learned only one skill related to 『Black Bass』.

『Ghost in the Shell』, used as a mobility technique.

If Leeha had mastered it, he could have quickly escaped Elizabeth’s threat, which was why she had gently reproved him.

‘If you had learned it, you would have escaped, but have you not even learned that yet? I thought.’

If Elizabeth had awakened 『Black Bass』 and there was something else afterward…

What was the elusive nuance she occasionally showed?

“The coordinates for the Corrupted World Tree’s Forest have been set.”

“Oh? Ah, yes, then let’s go.”

They had to wake the Black Bass. To do this, finding it was crucial.

“To meet Elizabeth.”

A pale purple light flashed from the bodies of Leeha and Blaugrunn.

* * *


“Uh, um, so… you’re saying that Petyr-nim doesn’t wish to join us?”

“Buhihit, it’s not surprising, is it? A game without surprises isn’t fun.”

Petyr spoke without even descending from the tree.

Kijung felt frustrated that the person they had finally found was being uncooperative.

‘I spent hours searching for this damned guy…’

He had heard stories about Petyr from Leeha, and Leeha had even mentioned these stories to him.

However, Petyr didn’t respond to Kijung’s whispers, and Kijung, along with Raphaela and Rubini, spent hours around the previous location of the Midnight Circus’s mobile tent searching for him.

Kijung took a deep breath to calm his excitement and reconfirmed his intention.

“From what I heard from Leeha hyung, you were going to search for Pyrot-Cocri from the Midnight Circus. He also mentioned that you were considering the proposal positively―”

“When~? Neither I nor the leader of 『Midnight Circus』 ever answered YES, buhuit!”

“… I told you, Master Kay. If Petyr had been a cooperative ranker, Minis would have won the national war against Fibiel from the start.”

Raphaela sighed.

Standing next to her, Rubini also nodded.

Unlike Kijung, who was initially part of Minis, they had more information about Petyr and had opposed Kijung’s idea of persuading him.

“Alright, so we can take it that Petyr, as well as the Midnight Circus officially, have rejected Leeha hyung’s proposal?”

Kijung asked in a serious tone, but Petyr did not respond.

He didn’t even nod; he merely sat on the branch cleaning his ears.

“In—fo—ma—tion?”

Petyr’s voice, drawling out the word one syllable at a time, was anything but gentle.

Kijung instinctively reached for his shield and turned to look at him.


“Hmm?”

Petyr had already landed. Kijung hadn’t even heard a sound of his descent.

Raphaela and Rubini felt the shift in atmosphere and began to distance themselves from Kijung.

Petyr’s ambush abilities were well-known, and if they had to assist in the fight, they knew they’d only be a hindrance in close combat.

But Petyr, seeing the now battle-ready group, merely whistled.

Kijung raised his sword at the eerie melody, but Petyr didn’t seem to have any intention of attacking.

Instead, he stopped whistling and began to sing.

“‘Hush-a-bye, hush-a-bye, naughty baby, hush now, you noisy thing.'”

“… What are you talking about?”

“‘Be quiet now. Or else Bonaparte’s passing through that path.'”

Though Kijung couldn’t understand Petyr, who was now both singing and dancing strangely in front of him, the women behind Kijung recognized the tune.

“Mother Goose’s lullaby…?”

“Mother― what did you say, Raphaela-nim?”

“It’s a lullaby from Mother Goose. The one called ‘Baby, baby, naughty baby’―”

“But the content is too horrible to be called a lullaby.”

Rubini added.

Petyr, having realized the two recognized his song, stopped singing immediately.

As soon as the song, which was embarrassing to even call a lullaby, stopped, the atmosphere became even bleaker.

Petyr, after glancing at Kijung, suddenly spread his arms wide.

Kijung almost used “Dinosaurization”, but Petyr wasn’t trying to attack.

“A surprise~? Buhihi!”

With those words, he climbed back up the tree.

The three found it difficult to catch Petyr’s swift movements as he darted from tree to tree.

By the time the sound of rustling leaves reached them, Petyr was already gone.

“… I’ve seen many concept users in Middle Earth, but he’s the ‘real deal’.”

“People in Minis also say the same. They say Alexander is nothing compared to him…”

Kijung sighed heavily, releasing the tension. Raphaela, too, responded with noticeable discomfort.

Only Rubini remained wary.

“Something’s wrong.”

“Huh? What is?”

“I’ve heard that Petyr sings nursery rhymes while assassinating people… Raphaela, you know about this, right?”

“Of course, nuna. It was so absurd I thought it was a joke, but after seeing his behavior now, I think it might be true―”

“What about the rumor that the content of the nursery rhyme and the assassination are similar?”

“Huh?”

As Raphaela tilted her head in confusion, Kijung suddenly recalled an incident.

“Oh! Come to think of it, it was the same during the assassination attempt on the King of Fibiel. What was it― some song about London Bridge…”

To stop Petyr, Shin Nara, Tale, and Biyemi infiltrated the Fibiel Royal Palace. Especially Shin Nara, who first spotted Petyr, and Biyemi, who chased after him, reported that Petyr was singing “London Bridge is falling down.”

“Yes. And that is one of the rumors. Petyr never gets the lyrics wrong.”

“The lyrics? Were the lyrics wrong? I’ve never heard that song before…”

When Kijung asked, Rubini nodded.

“Singing in front of someone other than his assassination target is strange. If singing nursery rhymes was a hobby of his, the rumor Raphaela heard would’ve been known as a fact. But no one has ever heard his songs. All NPCs targeted for assassination were killed. And in the nursery rhyme earlier, bonaparte should have ‘passed by this road.’ In other words, we should have been killed.”

Raphaela was amazed by Rubini’s relentless deductions, as was Kijung.

“Uh, earlier, he definitely said ‘that road’, right?”

“Yes. His nursery rhyme is associated with a specific assassination. So, based on the assumption he sang in front of us as a hint of a particular incident―”

Rubini’s words were absurd but couldn’t be dismissed entirely, it was a sort of ‘prophecy.’

“―Petyr will try to kill Pyrot-Cocri. Personally.”

“Then we―”

“It’s a warning. The ‘naughty baby’ disturbing ‘that road’, I.e., us… Petyr will try to kill us. Like the nursery rhyme’s last lyrics, ‘tear the limbs apart, beat until mush, and devour’. Petyr is like Bonaparte, the figure mentioned in the nursery rhyme, a metaphor for France.”

A seer of the future.

Rubini wasn’t called 〈Dr. Doom〉 for nothing.

Going beyond the simple use of Middle Earth skills, Rubini was someone who conducted a perfect analysis to find the target!

While Raphaela looked at Rubini with admiration, Kijung crossed his arms and tilted his head, puzzled.

“… But what kind of nursery rhyme is that? Who would let a child listen to that?”

“No way! Master Kay? Are you―”

“I’m just curious! It’s fascinating, that’s all.”

Raphaela felt a different kind of amazement towards Kijung than she did towards Rubini.
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“Ugh! Seriously! Hyein oppa just left shockingly, and I’m the only one left here, getting so frustrated! Are you really not going to tell me where Kijung is?”

“If K-Kijung didn’t tell you, he must have had a good reason. Long-range dealers capable of piercing a Manticore’s skin are rare, so if Bobae isn’t there…”

“I don’t know, I don’t care! There are so many people now! It feels like I can just leave, but Kijung always…”

It was understandable why Bobae was pouting with such a disgruntled face.

Bobae had been excluded from the operation to kill Pyrot-Cocri.

Considering Bobae boasted the strongest attack power within the Byulcho guild, Kijung’s exclusion of her had made her quite upset, and she was taking it out on Leeha.

‘Oh, I just came to say hello, and now this mess! Kijung must be having a hard time too; I heard they couldn’t even convince Petyr…’

Apart from Raphaela, the second party member recruited was Hyein.

Although Leeha had provided the information, Kijung had judged that an expert in space was necessary due to the wide search area and had called in Hyein.

‘If things were the way they should be, adding Petyr and Hyein together would’ve been perfect, along with one more dealer.’

Leeha thought that the ‘one more dealer’ might have been Bobae.

Despite being a top-ten ranker, Bobae was considered the least active primarily because she had spent most of her time with Kijung since joining the Byulcho guild. This had the advantage of having fewer rivals or enemies, thus reducing competition against her.

‘If we want to keep this secret from Chiyou and others… we need to move with a very small number of people. That’s probably why it was difficult to call Nara or other rankers.’

Of course, Chiyou’s team would know about the new area opening in northern Shazrashian.

However, both Chiyou and the Shinobigumi and Yamato led by her were focusing on the Demon King’s Army in the New Continent, so they likely had little information about this place for now.

‘If key rankers or influential figures responsible for defending the western New Continent suddenly head to northern Shazrashian…’

The likelihood of them noticing would be high.

Though Leeha had considered Shin Nara, Karelin, and even Lark, all of them were key figures representing their respective countries.

In short, they could not be brought out of the New Continent.

‘Even Lark, the slick one, is in such a state, not to mention others active in the New Continent. I wonder if I’ll ever hear from Lee Jiwon.’


Even recently, Lee Jiwon, who had said he would go to northern Shazrashian, had blocked all whispers.

With few rankers and solo players to call on who were less active in the New Continent, options were limited.

‘Would Ram Hwajung be the most likely candidate now?’

Though there was a high chance she wouldn’t join due to overprotection from Ram Hwayeon, Leeha calculated that with good persuasion from Kijung and a bit of coaxing from himself, Ram Hwajung could be recruited, making it the best option he had.

“Kikit, as always, you’re quite busy. Did you come to head to the eastern New Continent?”

“Huh? How did Biyemi know—”

“It would be strange if you, Ha Leeha-nim, didn’t pass by when Luger and Kidd had already gone.”

As usual, Biyemi was quick on the uptake.

“It’s not like we’re completely clueless. They left quite a while ago. You’re a bit late.”

Even when Leeha tried to speak, Bobae’s incessant chattering interrupted, prompting Jin Gonggong to subtly intervene between the two.

Leeha was grateful for Jin Gonggong’s perceptiveness.

It wasn’t just because they vaguely expressed knowing something was happening secretly.

“Ah! Jin Gonggong! Don’t push me! I still have things to say—”

Bobae, who was aggressively approaching Leeha, soon regained her senses thanks to Jin Gonggong’s subtle ‘butt-push’ attack, something Leeha appreciated.

“Hehe, thanks, Jin Gonggong. Oh right, anyone else passed by?”

“Though some users talked about exploring the eastern New Continent by flight… Kikit, as you know, it’s tough to pass the Manticore’s surveillance by flying.”

“Then—”

“Besides, it’s also a non-teleport area…”

Biyemi added derisively.

“I checked a few days ago, and they were all dead bodies.”


Jin Gonggong showed a sympathetic expression at the dead users.

Among the former ‘Three Weirdos of Candle Castle’, Leeha could somehow find it amusing how different their personalities had become.

“Ha Leeha, it would be better to move slowly on the ground rather than by flight.”

“Wouldn’t it take too long? If a Manticore shows up, Blaugrunn and I could just take it down in one shot―”

“Kikik, you always say that. Do you remember who the Manticore is a messenger of?”

“……Ghibrid. Damn, you’re right.”

It would have been an excellent opportunity to kill the Manticore.

However, the moment they killed a Manticore, Ghibrid would detect Leeha’s presence and appear immediately.

In other words, the forest of the corrupted World Tree was not only the point where the “Sacred Alliance” guarded the East from the West but also where the “Demon King’s Fragments” kept watch from the West.

“Ha Leeha, then―”

“Ugh, I wanted to travel comfortably with Blaugrunn. Are we going to have to endure suffering like when we traveled with Jellypong?”

This destroyed their plan to follow the vanguard using Blaugrunn’s flight.

Leeha parted ways with Byulcho and continued to walk eastward.

The sun shining from behind them cast shadows ahead.

After walking for some time, they passed through a forest, climbed over rocky mountains, and crossed valleys, finally entering a region where teleportation was impossible.

Mana around them was freezing.

All forms of space movement skills were restricted.

“I see… This is the place.”

“Oh? Ah! Blaugrunn-ssi, it’s your first time here?”

Leeha suddenly realized.


When he first headed east on the New Continent to find Elizabeth, Blaugrunn had not followed because he had other tasks.

“Yes. It’s not just the space that’s locked. The flow of mana feels slightly sluggish.”

“Really? There’s no skill penalty though. Is it different somehow?”

“Hmm… I don’t know. It’s not a specific interference, but something feels oddly different. Was Bailephus-nim okay here?”

Blaugrunn tilted his head while looking at his hands.

No notification windows appeared for Leeha. When he actually opened the skill window and checked, there were no changes.

“Is it different for mage classes? No, that can’t be. Even Lee Jiwon-ssi caused a huge ruckus here. So why did Blaugrunn-ssi suddenly mention Bailephus-nim…?”

Leeha felt suspicion through Blaugrunn’s words.

Why would he think of Bailephus here of all places? There was only one common factor between the two.

“A unique penalty for dragons…? No way, that can’t be. This can’t be happening.”

With Ghibrid already making flying difficult, an additional penalty was out of the question!

Though even a brutal place like Middle Earth wouldn’t go that far, Leeha opened his friend window on a sudden thought.

“I’ll just contact Bailephus-nim directly. Hold on.”

“Yes. This area is safe anyway. Shouldn’t we first figure out which direction Ha Leeha’s trusted comrades went through?”

“Trusted, my foot! We’re following the path they took, so don’t worry.”

Leeha pouted his lips and contacted Bailephus.

Thanks to the buff “Blessing of Bailephus”, excluding communication interference, Leeha could always reach him.

He was one of the few NPCs with whom he could exchange whispers.

― Bailephus-nim! How are you?

― Ha Leeha. You’ve crossed the forest of the corrupted World Tree.

― Huh? How did you know? I was just going to greet you as I’m passing through here today…

― Because you contacted me due to Blaugrunn’s issue.

― What?

Bailephus spoke as if he already knew Leeha’s concerns. How sorrowful it was when a bad premonition came true.

Leeha found out through Bailephus that the powerful strands of dark energy spreading throughout the underground of the New Continent were disturbing the flow of mana. This interference especially affected dragons, who were highly sensitive to mana, causing a decline in the effectiveness of their magic or preventing them from using certain spells altogether.

“Blaugrunn might be the strongest juvenile dragon, but since he hasn’t returned to the adult state yet, the impact must be even more severe”, he mused.

“Haah… If even Bailephus-nim finds it difficult, it must be really bad.”

“Even so, an ordinary human wouldn’t be able to handle this, but still… be careful.”

Of the 〈Demon King’s Fragment〉.

Leeha understood the unsaid warning from Bailephus.

He relayed this information to Blaugrunn, who was initially disheartened but soon recovered.

“As expected, the only way is to quickly become an adult.”

“Yes. Lord Bahamut also mentioned it would happen soon.”

“Yes. Let’s go quickly!”

Leeha patted the head of Koma walking bravely beside him.

Despite having a much longer lifespan according to the game settings, Blaugrunn seemed merely cute at moments like this.

As the elongated shadows nearly vanished, the night began to settle in, and they barely managed to walk under the moonlight when Leeha and Blaugrunn finally detected the first movement.

“Ha Leeha-nim, have you caught something?”

“Um… I don’t think so. Before the Gryphonia appeared, we didn’t encounter any monsters.”

There had been a gryphon monster with a female face along the cliff where Elizabeth and Brown’s temporary dwelling was.

Perhaps because they had quickly moved using Jellypong’s three-dimensional maneuvering before reaching that point the last time.

It was definitely a monster they hadn’t encountered before.

Leeha quietly took a silencer out of his bag and attached it to his gun’s muzzle.

They couldn’t avoid the muzzle flash, but reducing the gunshot noise was more important at the moment.

“The distance is approximately 200 meters… it wouldn’t be a Chimera, right?”

They didn’t know where Ghibrid might be nearby.

“Even if it’s a Chimera, it should be okay if Ghibrid is not nearby. Only Manticores can act as ‘Messengers’.”

“Alright then, let’s deliver one shot. Blaugrunn, be on guard around us.”

“Understood.”

Leeha crawled forward cautiously. There wasn’t anything particular to worry about nearby.

‘Bipedal. Height is about 2.5 to 2.8 meters, and it looks somewhat like a kangaroo… but oddly has a monkey vibe as well.’

He was briefly curious about the monster’s name but soon shook his head.

Lying flat on the ground, Leeha carefully pulled the bolt.

The sound of the bolt sliding into place felt excessively loud, but there was no way it could be heard at this distance.

‘The wind is light. The wind speed should not exceed 3 m/s. The distance is short enough that wind direction wouldn’t matter.’

There was no need to adjust the clicks.

Aiming through the 〈Distorted Vision〉, Leeha steadied his breathing.

“You’re the first offering to… the awakened Black Bass.”

Then, he slowly pulled the trigger.

“First sacrifice.”

──────────────────!

Within the brief and heavy reverberation, a sound of something splattering could be heard.

Leeha could feel that the bullet had perfectly penetrated the monster’s head.

“This level is no problem at all. Charging rate! Charging rate!”

With a mix of pride and foolish joy after a great shot, Leeha checked the item window of Black Bass.
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“How did it go, Ha Leeha? Did the charge rate increase?”

Blaugrunn hurriedly ran to Leeha’s side and asked. Blaugrunn couldn’t perfectly read Leeha’s expression.

“Heh, hehehe… hehe….”

“Oh, did it increase? Or―”

“Blaugrunn-ssi…?”

“Yes?”

“It… did increase but….”

The charge rate of the Black Bass could only be obtained from the first creature of the species hunted for the first time.

This meant that even if they captured and killed 1,000 more nameless monsters, a mix of kangaroo and monkey, the rate would never increase again.

〈Awakened Legendary Black Bass (1st Enhancement―Lava)〉

(Not for Trade)

Additional Effect―3: Awake when the charge rate is above 30%

Sleep when the charge rate is below 10%

Current Charge Rate: 0.27%

With great difficulty, the charge obtained from one creature was just 0.27%.

If future monsters granted a similar charge value?

It would mean Leeha needed to find at least 112 completely new monsters in the Eastern New Continent, ones he had never encountered before, to just reach the minimum awakening condition of 30%.

And this, before the charge rate dropped again.

“Damn—”

You damned Middle Earth──!_


In the situation where he couldn’t even raise his voice for fear someone around might hear, Leeha expressed the anger arising from the depths of his soul in silence.

Blaugrunn watched as Leeha struggled, gradually stepping back.

While Leeha suffered with the charge rate, there were also other users cursing “damned Middle Earth.”

Not just one, but two.

* * *

“Damned Middle Earth! Kidd, I told you to check the left first!”

“That’s—”

────,

“As easy as—”

────,

“You can do it yourself then!”

Kidd ignored Luger’s shouts and dealt with the enemies on the right.

Luger, frustrated, had no choice but to deactivate his 〈Acht-Acht〉 mode.

“Kuhhh, these crazy bat bastards. If they touch you, they rip you apart from the wings to the thighs—”

Luger hastily lifted his Cobalt Blue Python and fired, but the monster dodged it with an unpredictable movement.

“Kyaaaa—!”

The giant bat, spinning as it flew, seemed to dodge all of Luger’s shots as if it could foresee them.

“Damn it, you damn—”

Ta-daaang──────!

The giant bat, which was aiming for his neck, suddenly turned ash-gray and started to transform.


As Luger, overpowered by the force, wrestled with it on the ground, the bat’s figure had already vanished.

“Such complaints can wait till later, Luger.”

“… Major. Damn it, what’s with these vampires!”

Luger pushed off the vampire’s corpse that had attacked him, heeding Browless’s suggestion.

It had been about 5 days since they marched past the Corrupted World Tree Forest when they first faced this serious obstruction.

‘A vampire is still a vampire, I guess!’

There were no disruptions at the entrance of the eastern forest.

They managed to march forward, expertly avoiding even Ghybrid’s Chimera, and successfully moved past the temporary house where Elizabeth and Brown used to stay, reaching the dark forest without any problem.

Now, they had just emerged from that dark forest, but within minutes, they were ambushed “from behind.”

‘Who would have thought they were hiding in the dark forest… They deliberately waited until we passed and then attacked us—’

Luger frowned as he fired at the giant bats flapping around.

The massive flames from the muzzle briefly illuminated the dark night.

“Don’t let them escape!”

“I know!”

Even without conversing, everyone knew what to do.

〈Vampires〉 were different from naturally occurring monsters.

Why did they wait in the dark forest as if lying in wait, and then ambush from the rear once night fell?

‘It was an ambush. The dark forest blocks light, making it ideal for waiting regardless of day or night. And there’s only one reason for such a calculated attack!’

The vampires were given orders.

The expedition members knew who was currently commanding the vampires.


“Kidd!”

“Director!”

Kidd and Browless ran in opposite directions, guarding each other’s backs, while Alexander and Bailephus were busy chasing the fleeing vampires.

“They’re not threatening, but they are annoying. Partner, track all the vampires in the vicinity.”

“No problem. The traits of these blood-sucking insects are clear!”

Bailephus cast tracking magic on the vampires, turning them into glowing targets in the darkness for Alexander’s spear.

“Your spear is more agile than my whip. It’s like you’re swatting mosquitoes with an electric racket… Well, since they’re vampires, there’s a similarity.”

Fernand simply defined Alexander’s spear skills.

Its length could extend freely like a magic staff, and it even incorporated a form of holy power based on ‘justice’, making it nearly impossible for the dark race of vampires to defend against.

“Screeeeetch!”

“Their screams are quite loud.”

Especially considering that the person wielding such skills was ranked number one among users.

“〈Dark Spear〉!”

There were some vampires who transformed from giant bats into human form and used magic, but it was child’s play before Bailephus.

“Do you think you can mock an Ancient Gold Dragon with such paltry magic!”

Even though Bailephus’ strength had decreased somewhat since crossing into the eastern continent, the intimidation emanating from an Ancient-level being was on a whole different level.

“Kuhaha! Golden lizard! You should’ve tagged them sooner, right!?”

“Be quiet, Luger.”

Once Bailephus illuminated the vampires’ movements, Luger’s artillery was revived.

“Eat this and die, you bastards!”

The exact number of vampires that had emerged from the dark forest to ambush the group was forty.

Besides Fernand, there were only four full-fledged combatants, but they calmly reduced the enemy numbers, and by the time Luger’s artillery fire dwindled, all the flying objects in the night sky had vanished.

“That last one was the fortieth. The number of vanished corpses matches the initial count.”

Fernand meticulously checked the number of obliterated vampires.

“Kuh… Chiyou, who supposedly absorbed vampire traits in her second job change, is at this pathetic level—”

Luger laughed as he looted a fang from a vampire’s corpse.

“They are the lowest level of vampires.”

“—skill—what?”

The laughter vanished within seconds.

Bailephus’ words were confirmed by Browless’ nod.

“The dragon is right. Compared to the power of the vampire legion led by Bathory during the Second Human-Demon War… these guys are just scouts.”

“How many of these are there?”

“If it’s similar to then, at least several thousand. Well, it was a night ambush, and you guys are still adapting to the attack, but… these ones aren’t that difficult.”

Browless gave a faint smile, encouraging his students, but Kidd and Luger were in no mood to be happy.

‘The precise problem is the night ambush. In pitch black darkness, how do you hit something moving so fast—’

‘Dammit, how can we hit them? Did Ha Leeha really take out so many of these things? And we know more night ambushes are inevitable!’

Even they could hit distant targets fairly easily.

“It was because they also had skills similar to ‘Eagle’s Eye’.”

However, it was different from ‘Distorted Vision’.

Without a skill that could see all movements, enemies like Vampires would continue to be quite troublesome for Luger and Kidd.

“Bailephus, are there any Vampires hidden inside the Forest of Darkness?”

“I don’t sense any right now. But… if they are maintaining a distance somewhere around here, it would be difficult for me to track them.”

While Fernand pointed inside the Forest of Darkness, Bailephus scanned the surrounding area. No matter how extensive mana detection could be, it had its limits.

What if someone watched this battle from a distance, from a location not caught by detection?

Especially if that someone was a Vampire?

“It means there’s a chance that Chiyou and Kaztor noticed our movements.”

“If it’s a lower-level Vampire—of course, their intelligence is among the highest of common monsters, but still low within their kind. It’s more likely that Chiyou, who’s become a second Bathory, set this up as a trap, more for reconnaissance or surveillance than predicting our movements.”

To Fernand’s disheartened statement, Browless provided a counterargument. But the conclusion was essentially the same!

What if the Vampires stationed for reconnaissance or surveillance were all dead?

Surely, questions would arise about who killed them. Especially if their leader was Chiyou, such a conclusion would be inevitable.

Naturally, they would suspect the experts of the ‘Sacred Alliance.’

“And then—phew, the problem is—ugh, listen up! I—whew, can set them—”

“Who’s there!”

“Hm!?”

At the sudden voice, Alexander, Luger, Kidd, and Browless all went into alert mode.

The only one with a calm face was Bailephus.

“Damn golden lizard, you’ve lost your touch! Who’s there? If you don’t come out now, I’ll punch a hole through your belly!”

“… It’s not magic.”

“What?”

It was natural for Luger to growl in tension.

The sound, coming from a sparsely wooded area, gradually grew closer. Meanwhile, there was a dragging sound, *swish*, *swish*.

“It sounds like the movement of a Chimera… similar to a Chimera.”

Though Browless suspected the worst with a worried expression, the others remained doubtful.

Chimeras do not speak.

And they would never offer to help.

When the silhouette emerged more clearly from the darkness, even Fernand, Luger, Kidd, and the usually unflappable rank one, Alexander, couldn’t help but widen their eyes.

“Whew! Hello, everyone?”

“… Prea?”

“The White-Eyed Spiritist!?”

It was Prea.

* * *

“First, take this, ugh, this was the squad leader commanding the pack of Vampires in the Forest of Darkness.”

The strange dragging sound turned out to be the corpse of a Vampire.

Perhaps she was trying to drag it along using an Intermediate Earth Spirit. Beside her, something made of rock was bellowing, *oooh*.

“Anyways, completely useless. Fine, you can go now!”

“OOOooOOOoo—!”

“Quiet!”

Prea kicked the rock, roughly half her height. It soon faintly disappeared.

Alexander and the rest didn’t know how to respond.

Why was she bringing the corpse of a squad leader from a Vampire pack?

“As the rumors say, you are under Chiyou’s side.”

“Oh my, absolutely not! Who would say such terrible things! If I were, would I have brought this one’s corpse?”

“It’s Chiyou’s specialty. Everyone here knows her main skill is sacrificing the small to gain the big.”

Luger and Kidd were the first to guard against her.

It was perfectly possible with Chiyou.

Giving away a bunch of Vampire underlings and a squad leader, only to gather information on everyone’s location here, their objectives, and current state would be a major success.

“If I were a Vampire, a member of the Demon King’s army, or a comrade of Bluebeard, wouldn’t our Dragon here have already figured it out?”

Prea pointed at Bailephus.

Though he was currently in human form, with his golden armor and golden aura surging from his sword, no one would mistake him for an ordinary user.
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“Ugh… But it’s hard to justify why Lady Prea appeared so suddenly. More importantly! What is it you were talking about earlier?”

“Which? Ah! The part where I said I could be of help?”

In response to Fernand’s question, Prea answered cheerfully.

Then she pointed at Luger and Kidd.

“Don’t you all know?”

“Me? Know what?”

“Ha Leeha’s comrades! Since Ha Leeha is nearby, wouldn’t it make sense to cause a bit of a ruckus here? The Vampire Scouts will come to investigate by tomorrow night. If we could summon Ha Leeha here before that… Well, that person alone could handle about forty vampires easily. Right?”

Prea said with a grin.

In other words, her suggestion was to frame the results of their vampire hunt on Leeha!

If Leeha was nearby, it was feasible and made sense, but the two found it hard to believe Prea’s claim that Leeha could single-handedly take down forty vampires.

While Kidd and Luger were too hesitant to voice their thoughts, Browless stepped forward.

“Indeed. So Leeha was around here. Then erasing our traces wouldn’t be an issue. But how do you, an Elf, know Leeha?”

“I happen to have connections. Besides, I have some business here in the 〈Forest of Darkness〉. I’ll reach out to him!”

Prea winked at Browless and immediately whispered to Leeha.

Though the situation was unexpected and perplexing, her suggestion was clearly rational.

Erasing the traces of the Eastern Continent Expedition was of utmost importance.

Speculations swirled in everyone’s mind about when and where Prea had been here and how much she had witnessed, but no definite answers emerged.

The only person who could provide an answer was one.

Leeha, who unexpectedly became the target, felt his head spinning.

Prea, as well as Alexander, Fernand, Bailephus, Kidd, and Luger all whispered to him simultaneously.


* * *

– One person at a time! Wait, one at a time! Aren’t you all together?

– Prea? What do you—ugh, so loud!

In Middle Earth, it was common practice to permanently block whispers once you attain a certain level of fame.

Even seeing the messages in text was bothersome enough, but multiple voices echoing without distinction inside one’s head was nothing short of torture.

After sorting things out separately with the members of the Eastern Continent Expedition and Prea, Leeha finally grasped the situation.

– So, Chiyou noticed an approaching Expedition and deployed vampires?

– Of course not! So, Ha Leeha-nim should come quickly, deal with the vampire scouts arriving tomorrow, or cause a bit of a scene here and then reappear around the Deteriorated World Tree’s Forest or something.

– Pretend to come this far and then leave?

– Exactly, exactly! You are indeed smart!

– And maybe give a ‘tip’ to you, who shared all this valuable information? Am I right?

– Well, give and take, isn’t it?

Prea spoke with a tint of disappointment but, in reality, she had nothing to be disappointed about. She already knew who was in more dire need and was merely pretending to yield to avoid provoking Leeha.

The problem was that Leeha saw through her subtle act.

“Her intuition is sharp… Tsk, hardly anyone knows about the departure of the Eastern Continent Expedition. Unless you saw or heard it directly, you wouldn’t know.”

Large forces were still scouring the West for signs of the 〈Demon King’s Army〉. Many monsters continued to respawn at the base that served for the last battle, and players were busy fulfilling quests to purge and purify such areas.

In the midst, it was suspicious to Leeha that Prea, who had no special connection with Ewin, knew of the expedition’s departure and was waiting near the Forest of Darkness.

―How did you know they would pass through there?

―If you watch their movements, you can’t miss it, can you?

– You’ve seen it before? No, even if you did see it, waiting near the Dark Forest based on just that one fact? Do you expect me to believe that?


– What if you don’t believe me?

As Leeha interrogated her, Prea’s voice gradually grew sharper.

However, she spoke the truth.

If she wasn’t believed here, everything might start to go awry.

– It’s a pity, such a pity.

– What is?

– It was a line I was going to use eventually… but I was hoping to get more use out of it first. Well, it doesn’t really matter since I have another one.

– Pardon?

“Ha, never mind. Blaugrunn-ssi, can you keep up with me if I move with three-dimensional mobility?”

When Blaugrunn asked what he meant, Leeha did not elaborate.

Prea had only one reason for waiting there and offering a proposition to Leeha from the start.

To prove that she had been diligently acting as a spy while deceiving Chiyou?

‘No way. She wanted to unlock the contract restrictions with the spirit of darkness.’

Leeha utilized Jellypong to execute three-dimensional maneuvers. Blaugrunn closely followed him in low-altitude flight.

“Should we ignore the monsters?!”

“Yes! We’ll kill them either way, so we can catch them over there!”

Normally, it would take at least five days for a typical reconnaissance and search mission, but Leeha and Blaugrunn could reach there in less than 24 hours.

‘The charge rate is reduced by 24 hours of real-time. In other words, five days in Middle Earth is fine! There’s still about four days left.’

Although he still had a long way to go to increase the charge rate, Leeha felt the need to delve deeper into the eastern area since they were bound to discover new types of monsters anyway.

‘It’s somewhere I planned to go anyway… I have to release the spirit of darkness too… Wonder if I can leverage this to gain a bit more?’


Thinking of an idea that would likely please Ram Hwayeon, Leeha and Blaugrunn flew across the night sky.

* * *

While Leeha was busy moving, the Eastern Expedition, which was in front of the Dark Forest, hurriedly set off again.

“White-Eyed Spiritist, can I trust you with this place?”

“I’ve already contacted Ha Leeha. Both of you know about this, right?”

Prea precisely pointed out Luger and Kidd.

Having been pressured to respond to Leeha with remarks like ‘you’ll be held accountable if things go wrong’ and ‘you should think carefully about the weight of your words before answering’, the two had no room for disagreement.

“Prea?”

“Pioneer King! I wanted to meet you anyway.”

“Me? Really?”

“Yes! You have explored the most regions among Middle Earth users! Did you happen to encounter areas where spirits appear? Unusual spirits, perhaps.”

“Well, there are a few places indeed—”

“I knew it! Let’s add each other as friends right now.”

Fernand was taken aback by the sudden interest.

Though flustered, he accepted the friend request, as he had his own motives.

“You knew the hiding place of Chiyou’s platoon-level vampire and brought it back through a 1:1 duel. Would you also have information about the disposition of the vampires?”

As a ‘guide’ who had to lead this expedition, he wanted to avoid as many dangers as possible.

“You live up to the title of guide.”

It was the highest praise Alexander could offer.

Luger and Kidd also stared at Prea with sharp eyes.

Since Bailephus did not say much and still controlled spirits, it was clear he hadn’t received the demonic energy, or ‘magi’, from any of the Demon King’s fragments like Bluebeard or Ghibrid.

However, didn’t you lend your strength to the ‘Demon King’s Army’ at least once before?

“I only know the vicinity of the Dark Forest. As you know, I was on their side but only halfway, just barely dipping my toe in. Do you think Chiyou would reveal all the secrets to me?”

Prea answered slyly.

“Then could you at least tell us everything about ‘this area’?”

Fernand asked slyly as well.

Prea’s white eyes gleamed for a moment but nothing more.

She soon took out a map from her bag and pointed out a few spots to Fernand.

“If all of this is true, it means you’re still on the side of the Demon King’s Army.”

“What do you mean! Didn’t you talk to Ha Leeha? I am working hard for our ‘Sacred Alliance’. Call me the beautiful spy, Prea.”

“… Which means we can’t touch you either.”

Regardless of whether she was with the Demon King’s Army or not, there was nothing they could do at the current point except believe in Prea’s words.

Usually, neither Rugha nor Kidd would have believed her, but the specially issued certificate and the existence known as ‘Ha Leeha’ raised Prea’s credibility within the Eastern Expedition.

“Alright. As long as you’re collaborating with Leeha, we must proceed for now. Isn’t that what the Pioneer King thinks as well?”

“Of course, Browless-nim.”

“Hmm. Our role in protecting justice is not over yet.”

Even Alexander hurried his preparations, maintaining his concept throughout.

Once Bailephus agreed as well, they were able to move forward anew.

Prea watched their direction for a long while before speaking.

“Noeaen? Can you avoid the eyes of the Ancient Dragon and follow them?”

『Even with weakened strength, it will be difficult to fool his eyes.』

“Hmm… We can’t help it then. For now, just keep track like before.”

『Understood.』

The strong-built man standing beside her disappeared into the ground as though he was swallowed.

Prea sat down nearby, swinging her body back and forth.

“Dark Spirit… Next is the new area in northern Shazrashian… And then ‘Laputa’, I suppose.”

She spread her hands and began folding her fingers one by one.

After folding all ten fingers, she unfolded five of them again.

* * *

“But we shouldn’t kill the Dark Spirit, right?”

“Why are you even asking! It’s not a monster.”

“Well, I just thought maybe it would raise the— the charge rate or something…”

Leeha sighed as he made his way out of the Dark Forest.

In Middle Earth time, it was only around three in the afternoon, but the Dark Forest was still pitch black.

‘I tried shooting at random things on the way here, but it was pointless… At least I got to eat thanks to that weird crustacean.’

Despite nearing the meeting place with Prea, Leeha’s charge rate was only at 0.56%.

‘It’s good news that each encounter grants a different rate and that stronger monsters give higher percentages. That crab gave me 0.29, so there is that.’

Compared to the 0.27% increase from the initial monster he caught, it was only a 0.02% difference, but Leeha was grateful anyway.

“First, to meet Prea— hmm, we’re almost there.”

“What? Oh, yes. I can sense it too.”

After moving for several hours through the Dark Forest, Leeha sensed Prea’s spirit aura even before Blaugrunn.

Although Blaugrunn had a look of admiration, Leeha couldn’t see it in the dark forest.

“Ha Leeha-ssi! As expected, you arrived quickly.”

“Prea-ssi. It’s been a while.”

As soon as Leeha emerged from the Dark Forest, Prea greeted him warmly.

Although Leeha and Blaugrunn squinted momentarily at the sudden sunlight, they had no major trouble observing their surroundings.
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“Vampires-”

“The corpses have all disappeared along with the sun. Leeha-ssi’s friends have already left.”

There was a battle with the vampires, and it was already known that Prea had brought the corpse of a senior vampire.

‘The real issue here is whether it’s truly a senior-level vampire… but Prea’s information about the vampire deployment points seemed to be somewhat accurate.

The Eastern Expedition, including Alexander, utilized the daytime when the novice vampires couldn’t be active, proving this fact to some extent.

Even without getting too close, it was easily detectable with Baelifus’s magic.

Therefore, they had no choice but to comply with Prea’s request.

“Spirit of darkness! Are you going to release us now?”

“Today… vampires are coming this evening, right? Another scouting party.”

“Yes, ness.”

“Confirm that as well. I will inform the mystical creatures of darkness.”

“Kaaak! Finally! Finally, a contract with the mystical creatures of darkness!”

As Leeha sighed and replied, Prea cheered and jumped around.

Leeha was aware that Prea’s joy wasn’t solely due to the contract with the mystical creatures of darkness.

‘Prea mentioned that the spirit of darkness is the first in the shadow attribute spirit realm… Once she breaks the ice, it will be easier to find other shadow attribute mystical creatures, right? It’s not just about gaining one spirit. That’s why Leeha couldn’t hold back anymore, despite his reservations before.

“Well, even if Prea likes it, if the mystical creatures of darkness refuse, it’s over for her, right?”

“Oh my, how do you see me? Do you think that would happen?”

“I guess not. Phew, okay. Then, where are they now? Kaztor is probably already on the move to the East, and since Bluebeard and Chiyou joined hands, someone must be accompanying her. Who went?”

Let’s get some information.

Prea’s expression changed immediately upon hearing Leeha’s words. Before she could speak, Leeha added:


“They won’t accept an ‘I don’t know’ as an answer. Think quickly and speak as you know. If you don’t answer within 3 seconds…”

“Chiyou went by herself. Along with Kaztor.”

“-And then?”

“Is that the end?”

“… Liar. Chiyou went alone, really?”

“It’s true. Please check for yourself.”

Prea shrugged. She thought that strategically removing the dark circles under her eyes might not be a bad idea. It was easy to create a nickname and easy to hide her expression as well.

Leeha stared at Prea without saying a word.

Prea, in turn, met Leeha’s gaze head-on.

“So, where are Igor, faust, and Pyro hanging out these days? And what about Sasuke?”

Leeha was the first to speak after a while. Only then did Prea clap her hands in surprise.

“Oh! Oh! It was Chiyou who followed Kaztor, but others have seen him too.”

“That’s nice. Please keep me posted on that kid as well.”

– Mister Blaugin, keep a lookout around us.

– Yes, I don’t sense any unusual movements.

Even while speaking to Prea, Leeha inserted words only meant for Blaugin. It was a precaution against a worst-case scenario attack, but fortunately, no such attack came.

Prea did not respond in the same manner.

“Faust passed by here not too long ago. Seems like the number of Lich Dragons has increased.”

“… What?”

However, that was far from being good news.


“Bailephus is here, but Kidd, luger, you both need to provide support. Do you understand?”

“We’ve heard enough. We’ll do just fine even without you telling us to.”

“Double-check the number of Lich Dragons. Is it true?”

Leeha completely tuned out Luger’s whispers and effectively shut out Kidd, focusing solely on Leeha for the conversation.

The first urgent reason Leeha whispered to them was because they needed to be cautious with the presence of Faust and the Lich Dragons, but the second reason was due to the staggering number of Lich Dragons, which now totaled eight.

“Are you serious that there are eight Lich Dragons?”

“Of course! They are part of the ‘Divine Alliance.’ You seem to be out of touch with the news from the mainland, aren’t you?”

“I’m asking because it seems unlikely. While Minis’ Lark and Sunnara from Fibiel have crossed over, the surveillance isn’t as strict as before. Increasing the number of Lich Dragons unnoticed-”

“Oh my, do you really think only two countries have rare dragons in their territory?”

Prea didn’t falter under Leeha’s pressure. Instead, her one question left Leeha speechless.

Eventually, Leeha found himself speechless, facing Prea’s reversed intimidation.

‘Kraven and Shazrashian… Damn it.’ Among them, the most frustrating was Kraven. If it were Shazrashian, rumors of a dragon being ‘devoured’ would have spread due to his recent activities in the area. The fact that there were no signs of such an incident implied that everything had unfolded in the remaining country.

“I found out that they were heading towards Kraven with Phairo, so I secretly followed them. Wow, it was so cool!”

“Phairo… darn it!”

Leeha felt a bitter taste in his mouth and asked, “What do you mean by ‘cool’?”

“Yes! I don’t think I could have fought that well even if I summoned the fire elemental. I mean, enduring a dragon’s breath! And then putting a flame skill like a breath in the dragon’s mouth!? It was practically like taking down an adult dragon with one strike.”

Leeha wrinkled his brows, observing Prea’s boasting.

‘Has some kind of state similar to the secondary job advancement occurred through the fusion with the vampire, thus increasing fire resistance? Is that how the characteristics manifested in that direction? It’s difficult to understand at the moment.

The fundamental reason why Phairo could withstand the dragon’s breath was most likely due to the 『Fire Flower』 obtained from the Lava Lizards.

What did Phairo do for the Lava Lizards there?


Leeha thought that because he found it easy, others would too, but in fact, that incident was the trigger for Phairo to feel inferior to Leeha.

“Oh, right! Since Chiyou took two Richt Dragons, it counts as twelve in total.”

“The two taken…? Chiyou took two Richt Dragons and headed with Kaztor?”

“Yes.”

Leeha chuckled, raising his head. The two Richt Dragons taken by Chiyou weren’t arbitrarily chosen.

They probably had a high chance of being dragons that Leeha ‘knew’.

The dragons that Faust and Igor had raised when they were active on the old continent.

Why did Gustav chase after them belatedly? What Leeha was curious about was their ‘time difference’.

Chiyou and Kaztor had left a long time ago. Only after several days did Faust set off with Richt Dragon of Yuede.

‘Could it be… an internal conflict?

There must be something happening.

As much as something obvious happened, there was undoubtedly something beyond the visible events.

“Got it. Now that the sun is setting, make your way into the Dark Forest.”

However, with the lack of information, it was too difficult to determine what situation was most likely to have occurred.

First, deal with the current situation at hand.

Prea hid her body in the Dark Forest, and Leeha waited for the vampires there.”Blaugrunn-ssi.”

“Yes?”

“Can you confirm something for me? The chance of encountering a Dragon Rare Elite near the Amacraven nation is high, right?”

“A Lich Dragon… is that what you mean?”

With a nod, the questioning figure continued.

I need to know. Clearer information is necessary.

“Understood. Shall we head back now?”

“Yes. Don’t worry about me.”

“I will gather information on the types, grades, and numbers of dragons that have become Lich Dragons.”

Blaugrunn also soon ventured into the depths of the Dark Forest.

Prea might notice Blaugrunn and the inquirer parting ways, but that didn’t seem to matter to the latter. Eventually, when the sun completely set in Midl Earth, night fell.

Bet-yeah, bet-ia-ia.

A strange alarm began to ring in the mind of the inquirer.

Quietly, the inquirer raised Black Bass.

『Seeing Eyes』 were silently looking.

The inquirer bit their lower lip slightly. There were a total of five vampires swooping down from the sky.

“Damn it, I didn’t say there would be five, did I!”

There was no mention of there being this many, indeed.

The inquirer tried to doubt Prea’s intentions still, but given that everything was disclosed beforehand, they hesitated to scrutinize further.

“Even with Alexander and Bailephus there—yes, they were caught off guard, but facing 40, including Browlyss’ commander, was quite a challenge”, luger and Kidd said nonchalantly, but if Fernal had told the truth, the inquirer could also envision the battle in their mind.

Since each of them faced eight vampires, it wouldn’t have exceed five for Luger and Kidd, considering that one of the 80 strongest vampires recognized by the Ancient Dragon and the inquirer, ranking first, joined the fray.

But now?

“I have to do this alone. Should have sent Blaugrunn a little later.”

Regret was futile.

The distance from the bats was already about 800 meters, and if there were any skills related to night vision, the inquirer might have recognized them. Leeha aimed at the first vampire.

“But you guys won’t be any better than Bathory. In that case, you can’t beat me. Ahhhhh……”

The vampire targeted by Leeha was among those flying in formation. When facing vampires, especially considering the possibility that they might use skills similar to Bathory’s, the “first shot” had to be the Mana Evaporation Shot. No flames were emitted from the black barrel of Black Bass equipped with acidic ammo. The deafening roar just stirred up the area near the dark forest.

Leeha no longer paid attention to the falling giant bats. The vampires, upon realizing that the center bat had died, expertly maneuvered in pairs of two, dodging intelligently.

“Where! Dual Shot!”

Nevertheless, evasion maneuvers and spatial maneuvers were the methods Leeha had always enjoyed. Once he confirmed that the giant bats were also engaging in organized and strategic combat, ihana aimed Dual Shot towards the position the two vampires avoiding in the left direction. Even if they realized there was a sniper, it didn’t matter. Each shot of Dual Shot currently dealt about 38,000 damage. With a 15% additional damage from the accumulated achievement “Unending Discovery of Bloodlines”, each shot now amounted to approximately 44,000 damage.

With a total of 44 shots unleashing attacks of 50,000 damages each, it was impossible for the two vampires to dodge them all. From a distance, the vampires’ screams could be heard, but Leeha’s muzzle was now facing toward the right. The two vampires were completely turning around in the direction they had flown from. Leeha aimed at one of the two falling giant bats. The wind speed and direction encountered by self from the ground and by the flying opponents in the air were not the same. However, it didn’t matter to Leeha.

“Woosh!”

Distance approximately 830. The body length of the giant bats was about 1.7 meters, and the wingspan reached 10.5 meters. Considering its weight, inertia-induced sway, and the range of movement influenced by wind and shape… Leeha could calculate everything in his head.
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Haaaaaaa────

‘One is enough.’

Leeha pulled the trigger.

─────────────…….

One of the giant bats that had scattered in both directions was plummeting to the ground. Out of the five giant bat scouts, only one managed to get away.

“Go quickly and tell Chiyou. The news will be delivered by tonight anyway…”

Leeha retrieved his Black Bass and thought about the next destination. Ha Leeha had appeared in the eastern part of the New Continent and had annihilated the vampire horde hiding in the Dark Forest. If this news reached Chiyou, what would she do? She would immediately use the skills she possessed. She would want to verify what Leeha’s objective was and what his thoughts were.

“Hehe, I don’t know when you’ll use it, but the cooldown should be up soon, right? Make sure to check my location well.”

Leeha couldn’t suppress his laughter.

“I’ll make it so you have to be teleported to 『Gaza City: Interior Office』.”

This created the possibility of exhausting Chiyou’s cooldown skill that had a month-long recharge.

“But even five of them are nothing special? Why did everyone struggle so much?”

Leeha knew well the difference between attacking and being ambushed. However, the thought of bragging to Kidd and Luger made him let out a hearty laugh.

“Prea! Let’s go! Oh, wait.”

Leeha walked into the Dark Forest, calling out to Prea. Then he opened the item inventory of the Black Bass.

“Is it over already? I barely heard any gunshots— Ha Leeha?”

Prea came out to meet Leeha and asked, but he couldn’t take his eyes off the air in a daze.

“Ha Leeha… ssi?”

“… Unbelievable.”

“What’s the matter— Eek!”


Prea slinked closer to Leeha. At that moment, she narrowly avoided getting hit by Leeha’s swinging arm.

It was an awkward situation to even get angry at Leeha.

“What is this— Haha! Hahaha! What is this!”

It was hard to curse at someone who suddenly started dancing and beaming with joy.

“W-What’s the matter?”

“This is amazing! Amazing! These vampire bastards, this! I should kiss them!”

And there was a solid reason why Leeha was so happy.

〈Awakened Legendary Black Bass (1st Enhancement – Lava)〉

(Not tradeable)

Additional Effect—3: Awakening when charge rate is above 30%

Sleeping when charge rate is below 10%

Charge Rate: 2.08%

The charge rate reached a whopping 2%.

Considering it was at 0.56% before, how much did it increase in one go?

‘It rose by 1.52%! Unbelievable! How could this be?’

Could one of the creatures he just hunted have contributed 1.52%?

‘No, no, that can’t be. The 〈Gigantic Mimic〉 was a field boss above level 300! So, why would a common vampire give more than 1.5%?’

It wasn’t even during the 〈White Reaper〉, and those few shots shouldn’t give that much, even if they were lethal.

Those ‘few shots’ were a dreadful skill dealing over 100,000 damage, but it couldn’t be considered a field boss level.

‘If it recognizes each bat as a ‘separate entity’…’


It was different from typical monsters. Vampires were a new race recognized at NPC level.

If they were treated that way…

‘Do I have to return to Gaza City? No, I need to deceive Chiyou first, so I do have to leave…’

Leeha could somewhat grasp his subsequent moves. If all the vampires he encountered from now on contributed to his charge rate individually.

If the four he just fought were of similar levels, giving around 0.38% each?

Even though there might be individual differences, if each guaranteed at least 0.35%…

‘Please, please, God, buddha, please! Make it so! I’ll live kindly from now on!’

After a long time, until Prea woke Leeha with a fake cough, he had prayed, or rather pretended to pray, for quite a while.

“C-cough. Then, let’s go and see the spirits of darkness.”

As much as Leeha made new discoveries and glimpsed the future, Prea also gained something.

Prea, having entered the Forest of Darkness, made a pact with the spirits of darkness. A bright white light burst from her body. Not only did she level up, but also it was the first time in the history of Middle Earth that a user made a pact with the spirits of darkness. Leeha could only roughly estimate how many good achievements the system would bestow upon her.

* * *

“Ah, oh no, those damn condors again!”

“Get inside quickly! Hurry! Hide inside the mine!”

“If you don’t want to become bird food, run! We don’t have time to carry the dead!”

The giants started running into the mine in a frenzy. The cause was the yellow light illuminating the night sky. That light emitted from the eyes of the condors, which shone brighter than the moonlight.

Their eyes were so large that they weren’t intimidated by the moonlight in the slightest. It was staring directly at the giants.

“Hey, you there! Little girl! Come inside quickly!”

The giants, scrambling to hide, saw the figure of a young human girl. Though they shouted at her, she did not move an inch.

“Damn it, if I see a kid as small as my thigh die, I won’t be able to sleep!”


One of the giants, who had a high sacrificial spirit set as an NPC trait, ran towards the girl.

“Little girl! Come to this ajussi! I—”

“Don’t come.”

“What, what? What are you talking about?”

The girl commanded the giant. Though he stumbled for a moment, he did not stop running.

“Step back.”

“The beak of that condor is bigger than your head! Come with me—ugh!”

Shwoooosh…

“〈Extreme Low Temperature〉.”

Cold air started to radiate from the girl’s body. Although it was already extremely cold at the northernmost part of Shazrashian, the chill seeping from the girl was on a different level.

“Keeeaa—”

“Kiii—kk!”

When the condor got close enough to overshadow the moon with its wings, the girl murmured quietly.

“〈Jet Stream〉.”

Fwhooshhh…

The extreme cold, set at -259.14°C, shot into the sky at a wind speed exceeding 50 meters per second.

“Ahhhh!”

The extreme cold that emitted from her body was all blasted into the sky through the jet stream. Yet, the ‘residue’ that was not caught up in the wind scattered around, causing the giant, who was resistant to Shazrashian’s cold, to scream.

The girl glanced at him before she spoke again. The giants, curious about the sudden loud noise and the strange phenomenon, peeked out from the mine.

“Run away.〈Frost Barrier〉.”

“W-what, suddenly run—my legs are frozen from cold—”

Shwoosh—

With the sound of something rapidly falling, the bodies of the condors collided with the frost barrier surrounding the girl and the giant.

However, few could recognize them as condor carcasses.

“What is that?”

“I-is it… ice rain?”

The frozen carcasses shattered into countless ice fragments upon hitting the frost barrier. Only pristine ice particles were scattered around the girl and the giant who had tried to save her.

The girl casually nudged the ice fragments with her foot. She seemed completely uninterested in the giant she saved or what the giants were doing there.

“Little girl—no, I mean, milady, what is your name?”

But the giants felt differently. Seven condors had descended, and yet she had eliminated them with a mere gesture!

One of the giants carefully approached the girl, but she did not even glance at him.

“……Shazra—Leeha? Oppa?”

As the girl checked the identity of the monster she caught, she tilted her head. At that moment, clapping sounds were heard.

Until now, the girl’s reaction had been indifferent, but this time it was different.

“Is that a second skill? It seems more like a low-grade skill. It doesn’t seem cost-effective to use it on just seven monsters.”

“Lee Jiwon.”

“Hello, Ram Hwajung. Can we talk for a moment?”

Two teenagers wandering around the new area of Shazrashian had crossed paths.

Ram Hwajung did not particularly frown, but she was not eager to initiate a conversation with him either.

“No. Your tone is weird.”

“Wow. Who are you to say that? Don’t you know your tone is even weirder?”

“I don’t know.”

Even aside from their expeditions to discover a new continent, the two had crossed paths quite a few times.

Most of the time, it was usually when many people, especially Ram Hwayeon, were present, or when the surroundings were crowded.

Just like now, as the giant NPCs started to stealthily head towards the mines, being face-to-face alone was a rare occurrence for them.

“Hmm…… this is troublesome. But I have to talk to you.”

“Goodbye.”

Ram Hwajung teleported.

She disappeared with a flash of light purple, but Lee Jiwon did not panic.

Shuaaa―!

“See? Even though I’m not a Sage, I can do at least this much~”

“…….”

Ram Hwajung teleported again.

Lee Jiwon did not lose her.

Despite being the northernmost part of Shazrashian with no artificial lights or proper cities other than the moonlight, the area lit up with the light purple aura created by the two.

How many times had the light purple aura flashed?

Ram Hwajung kept avoiding, and Lee Jiwon kept chasing.

“Are you going to keep this up until your mana runs out? I don’t mind.”

Lee Jiwon baited after chasing Ram Hwajung’s 64th teleport.

Realizing that she couldn’t shake him off with typical evasive teleports, Ram Hwajung stopped avoiding him.

Using a crystal ball to teleport to her hideout wouldn’t help if he continued to chase, and she knew her “nuna” would scold her if the safehouse of the guild 〈Hwajung〉 was exposed.

Moreover, going to places like Castle Dale or the 〈Partisan Fortress〉 on the new continent only meant more trouble if things escalated there.

Therefore, Ram Hwajung had to choose.

Talk with Lee Jiwon, or fight him.

“So annoying.”

Huuu……

Blue particles started to gather around her body.

Lee Jiwon’s eyes lit up with interest.

“You? Against me? Are you kidding?”

Black mana particles started gathering around Lee Jiwon’s body as well.

He unsheathed his black sword with determination.

“You haven’t even reached max-level yet…….”

“I’ll win.”

Although Ram Hwajung had completed her second job advancement, her level had not yet reached 300, though it was close.

Lee Jiwon, who had surpassed the max level of 300 long ago, was confident he would not lose to her.

He acknowledged Ram Hwajung’s abilities, but acknowledging is different from classifying someone as ‘above himself’.

“You’ll win? Hmm~ Not really~”

Even if it were Alexander or Leeha, Lee Jiwon would not back down from a fight.

Just as he was about to move, a silvery radiance burst between Ram Hwajung and Lee Jiwon.

『Stop.』

“〈Reflecting Shield〉! What is this?”

Prepared for an ambush, he quickly leaped back, activating a repulsion shield.

The ability to perform such high-level magical and swordsmanship techniques simultaneously was Lee Jiwon’s hallmark!

Ram Hwajung pouted her lips as she looked at the massive silver figure that suddenly appeared.

The light began to fade, and Lee Jiwon finally saw who it was clearly.

“……Not even Alexander…… This is a bummer.”

“Arzenmacht.”

The Silver Dragon Arzenmacht had seen Ram Hwajung’s ‘crisis’.

Ordered by Bahamut to monitor the vicinity of Pyrot-Cocri in the city of Peckle, it was possible for Arzenmacht to intervene.
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『”I told both of you to stop.”』

“Got it.”

“Hmm.”

Lee Jiwon found himself unable to either escape or attack. He felt confident in a 1:1 against Ram Hwajung.

Although winning might be difficult, he believed he absolutely wouldn’t lose.

However, it was a different story if a dragon interfered.

He briefly measured the situation before sheathing his sword. After all, he hadn’t come here to fight.

“Then, can the dragon tell me? Where’s the 2nd job change?”

His interest lay solely in the 2nd job change.

Wandering around newly opened terrains instead of going to 〈Laputa〉, he had come across Ram Hwajung, who was widely advertised by Ram Hwayeon as having completed the 2nd job change. He decided to talk to her, hoping for a clue.

“…2nd job change?”

“〈Find the space that doesn’t exist in this world, discover the rift in space〉… Others can simply hunt or do something, but this game’s balance is insanely off.”

Stuck on the first quest, he had no choice but to grasp at any straws he could find.

He had guessed the space that doesn’t exist in this world meant ‘unrevealed terrains’, and that had brought him here from 〈Laputa〉, but he had no success here either.

In that sense, Lee Jiwon hit the jackpot.

Ram Hwajung suddenly inhaled sharply, and the dragon’s expression slightly changed.

“…”

『The rift of space? Abyssal—』

“Don’t say it.”

Ram Hwajung spoke faster than ever before.


“Huh? What’s that?”

But Lee Jiwon couldn’t miss such a change.

Above all, the brief word uttered by Arzenmacht.

There’s only one place with such a descriptor anyway.

“Abyss… Abyssal Maw?”

Lee Jiwon mentioned the location he knew. Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht didn’t respond.

That was enough for him.

“Thanks!”

Hearing the word ‘the rift of space’, he’d gotten a hint.

Not from some fellow user, but from a dragon!

Before Ram Hwajung could cast a space barrier, the second-ranked Magic Swordsman had already completed his teleportation.

“Idiot!”

『Ugh, hmph.』

Ram Hwajung punched Arzenmacht, maintaining his dragon form, on the toe.

* * *

“Uwoooo—!”

“Kroo, Kkooook!”

Two-headed ogres and four-armed trolls charged towards Lee Jiwon, but he didn’t bat an eye.

“Yup~ Go away~ 〈Sparking Bird〉. Hooo…”

Carefully blowing into the wind with his hands clasped, a bird appeared.


It took the form of a small bird, but its true nature couldn’t be seen clearly.

It was a mass of electricity, endlessly sparking and crackling.

Zap—!

Electric birds flew towards the large monsters approaching Lee Jiwon, and monsters, at least twice and up to four times his size, fell to the ground from just a single electric spark bird.

The place where Bluebeard awakened was treated merely as a dungeon for hunting large monsters.

Many curious users had visited, but nothing special ever happened.

“With no monsters, there’s no one around.”

Moreover, this place was structured like layers of a dungeon. The floor where Bluebeard had awakened was particularly neglected because there were no monsters here.

“Well… it must be here.”

Finally arriving at the last floor, Lee Jiwon began to closely observe the area he had already seen once before.

The crystal ball where Bluebeard had awakened was now completely empty.

The only things illuminating the place were the torches left by users who had come and gone, and some scattered fragments of the shattered crystal ball—treated as non-collectible items—were lying around.

Lee Jiwon’s gaze quickly swept across the entire area and focused on one spot.

A massive darkness behind the crystal ball.

The darkness absorbed all light to the point of confusing the eyes and vision of the beholder, and he fixed his stare on it.

“The Abyssal Maw… Why didn’t I think of this? Am I an idiot?”

He then grasped the sword he hadn’t unsheathed since coming down here.

As Lee Jiwon carefully observed the color of the sword being drawn from its scabbard, he placed the blade in front of the Abyssal Maw and marveled.

When he juxtaposed the two pitch-black entities, the only visible part was the hilt.

If the hilt had not been visible or he hadn’t felt it in his hand, he might not even have realized he was holding the sword.


“Find a space that doesn’t exist in this world, discover the gap in space… and then—”

Lee Jiwon walked cautiously towards the Abyssal Maw.

He felt as if his entire body might be sucked in completely, and he reached the final boundary illuminated by the torches. He raised his sword.

“—Insert the key to enter.”

Lee Jiwon aimed his black sword at the Abyssal Maw.

He knew the length of his sword even without looking.

Thus, he did not worry about whether he was aiming correctly or whether the tip of the blade had already entered.

Because the action he was about to take was exactly that.

Lee Jiwon slowly inserted his sword into the Abyssal Maw.

Users could not tell whether it was a wall or something else.

However, if they saw Lee Jiwon’s sword sliding in smoothly as if cutting through tofu, they would have many questions about the physical nature of the Abyssal Maw.

As soon as the sword was fully inserted, black energy burst from the Abyssal Maw.

“What is—”

It swallowed Lee Jiwon whole.

Triumphant fanfare echoed in Lee Jiwon’s mind.

“Argh— what is this!?”

Lee Jiwon was too shocked to speak in his usual manner.

He had no time to properly check the fanfare of accomplishment.

Just moments ago, there had been Bluebeard’s crystal ball behind him.

But now?

There was definitely a glowing red crystal ball, but it was not behind him. Moreover, it differed from Bluebeard’s in one significant way.

Something was inside it.

Lee Jiwon recognized it.

“… Pyrot-Cocri!”

Because he was one of the few users in the Sacred Alliance who knew this fact.

‘Is this Pyrot-Cocri’s— Peklo City?’

Lee Jiwon quickly scanned his surroundings. However, there was no proper space.

There was only a small area containing the glowing red crystal ball and the Abyssal Maw facing it.

‘Was it the Ice City? No one mentioned that. Or is it the power of the Platinum Dragon?’

Everything else around was frozen solid.

Because Luger and Kidd, who hadn’t heard from Leeha about the Queen of Ice and Snow Spirits, couldn’t report it to the Sacred Alliance, Lee Jiwon was also unaware of it.

Anyway, even though everything around was frozen, he could move.

He could move to the glowing red crystal ball where Pyrot-Cocri was.

So, his task must be to destroy it!

“Soul Blue—”

Lee Jiwon was prepared to slice the crystal ball before him, casting a skill. However, at that moment, Pyrot-Cocri inside the glowing red crystal ball opened her eyes.

『Who are you? Who opened the Abyssal Maw? If I had been a little slower, Grandpa Le or hyung Ghibrid would have noticed!』

“—Ack!”

There were only two users who had met anyone inside the crystal balls, whether it was Bluebeard or Ghibrid.

Bluebeard’s Luger and Ghibrid’s Chiyou.

Excluding them, it could be said that there were none such as them. Therefore, even Lee Jiwon couldn’t be sure if he could act within the crystal ball.

“Kolok, kolok!”

Lee Jiwon hastily canceled his skill casting and performed an intense coughing act.

Pyrot-Cocri watched him closely from within the crystal ball.

To be precise, she wasn’t looking at Lee Jiwon but at the sword he was holding.

『Indeed… there was a key, huh? If you know how to handle that, you’d be quite strong for a human.』

Lee Jiwon also stopped coughing at that moment.

“Do you know Sol Blade?”

『Sol? Kkihihit! Do you even know what Sol is?』

“…It’s an ability that harnesses the energy of the sunspots, emitting extreme heat and light. A sword capable of handling thermal energy, emitting in the form of high heat and light. Unlike usual fire or electric magic, it has a characteristic black color… is that right?”

Most electric magic, which emits a blinding light, was usually white.

Special entities like Blaugrunn used variations of light in cyan or blue hues containing white.

Heat, similarly, often manifested in yellow or red, with stronger skills occasionally turning white or blue.

Black mana particles were usually considered skills akin to those of warlocks, dark mages, or dark mages.

They were typically linked with skills that involved curses, illusions, or psychological attacks, all utilizing dark energy.

As Lee Jiwon had stated, he understood that no one used skills involving heat and light in ‘black.’

『Sunspots? Whatever that is… it’s important to know that Sol doesn’t only mean the sun. Kkihihit! You are only seeing one side of the coin!』

“Then?”

『It’s the base that supports everything in this world… the lowest foundation. The last time, the three oppas were amusing, and you are amusing too.』

Lee Jiwon knew that ‘three oppas’ referred to the Three Musketeers, including Leeha, but he didn’t have the luxury to ponder that now.

“The lowest foundation?”

『If the sun is the brightest thing at the highest place, sol is the opposite! The darkest at the lowest place. It’s something indescribable by darkness alone. That is Sol.』

Pyrot-Cocri laughed.

Then, she began to move slowly within the crystal ball, as if moving through water.

Lee Jiwon flinched at her slow movements, but Pyrot-Cocri did not attack him.

『Do you know what I like the most?』

“Dunno.”

Pyrot-Cocri stretched her right hand and extended two fingers.

『Kkihihit! Theme game! Your choice!』

Her fingers formed a V.

* * *

Leeha was in the office of Gaza City, processing the backlog of approvals.

When he anticipated being absent for a long time, he delegated everything to a butler NPC. However, it wasn’t a perfect system, so regular checks were necessary.

“I really have to maintain an efficiency above 90% for city administration. After spending 15 straight hours getting to ‘my house’, I can’t even rest…”

The highest efficiency attained through complete delegation to NPCs was 80%.

To Leeha, that was sufficient, but he had no choice.

‘〈Partisan〉, who grumbles about being busy, always comes by once in a while to check, as if inspecting homework.’

After learning city administration from her, Ram Hwayeon would not allow any sloppiness. She would drop by Gaza City occasionally with the peculiar reasoning that shoddy management wasn’t acceptable.

“Of course! Every city I manage operates at 121% efficiency! Even when I’m busy and leave it to Jachung, it hits 97%! So if you’ve learned from me, Ha Leeha, how could you not achieve at least 90%!? I’ve told you numerous times that income increases significantly above 95%, and you still can’t get it right!”

Just like today.

“I know, I know. Could you stop nagging already…”

“What!? Are you dissatisfied with something? Should I leave now?”

“I’m not dissatisfied, teacher.”

Grumbling Leeha bowed politely, and Ram Hwayeon’s mood slightly improved.

In fact, inspecting Gaza City’s status was just a pretext.

When else could she see Leeha, with whom she could no longer hunt?

‘Geez, I thought we could see each other occasionally once he crossed into the New Continent, but all he does is…’

For Ram Hwayeon, it was merely an excuse to create an opportunity to meet, apart from occasional whispers if she could make requests.
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“Hmm! Let’s see, give me that.”

“Yes, ma’am. Here it is.”

When Leeha handed over the documents respectfully, Ram Hwayeon giggled.

Hearing her laughter, Leeha also smiled at her.

“Instead of looking at me, review just one more document!”

“Alright, alright. Geez, always nagging. If anyone sees… Uh, ahem!”

Embarrassed when their eyes met, Ram Hwayeon pouted, and Leeha, not realizing she was pouting, stopped grumbling and closed his mouth.

He found the next words too embarrassing to say himself.

Fortunately(?), Ram Hwayeon, who was now fully engrossed in the documents Leeha had handed her, didn’t understand what his next words meant.

Pretending to read the documents, Ram Hwayeon barely managed to calm her racing heart before speaking again.

“So, what are you planning to do about Pyrot-Cocri? Are you confident? You said you wouldn’t participate.”

“As I mentioned earlier, it’s not that I don’t want to participate, I simply can’t. The only reason I’m here is that Chiyou can read my location. Going to the north now would only increase the risk. Besides, you know who Master Kay is, right? And don’t forget Raphaela, Rubini, and Hyein also joined. Oh! Rubini isn’t officially in the quest party, though.”

“Adding Hwajung to the mix… If Pyrot-Cocri can really create undead out of the users it kills, then Hwajung becoming an undead would be a massive risk.”

“That’s why having assurance is crucial. If Ram Hwajung doesn’t participate and accidentally turns into an undead, it could jeopardize the Holy Knight.”

Both choices carried risks.

Having heard enough details since arriving at City Gaze, Ram Hwayeon knew calculating was far from over.

Most importantly, the thoughts and will of the combatants were the key conditions for clearing the quest.

“What about Petyr and the Midnight Circus?”

“Missing. Couldn’t find them even through the Intelligence Guild. I’ve heard they are also targeting Pyrot-Cocri on their own. Seriously, I wish they’d team up with Kijung and move together… Damn fools. Shouldn’t have told them.”

“You gave them information?”


“No, no way. What’s the point of telling non-accepting morons? I’m probably the only one who knows where Pyrot-Cocri might be roaming. Well, maybe Rubini could find it too.”

Though he hadn’t found Bluebeard personally, Rubini had a history of identifying incomplete states of Toon and others like Ghibrid.

Ghibrid, being a Demon King’s Fragment, had shown itself, but since Rubini had sensed it once via map skills, it was expected that detecting Pyrot-Cocri was possible, according to Leeha and Kijung.

‘Especially since this Pyrot-Cocri is not the original. Assuming it can’t perfectly hide its traces as a clone… it will definitely get caught.’

Hearing Leeha’s words, Ram Hwayeon pondered.

She had many points to consider herself.

But her conclusion had already been made.

“It will be necessary for the future.”

“What?”

“If the real Pyrot-Cocri awakens… then, experiencing its combat patterns and power level now would be invaluable. Also, the rewards from Ezwen wouldn’t be small.”

Ram Hwayeon, actively promoting Ram Hwajung’s second job advancement, couldn’t miss such an opportunity.

The existence of Ram Hwajung had already significantly raised the guild 〈Hwajung〉’s standing within Fibiel.

For someone currently commanding the 〈Partisans〉 in the new continent, she needed another chance to boost her fame.

“So, you permit it, right? You permit it?”

“We should ask Hwajung’s opinion too—but anyway, if you ask, of course, she would agree.”

“Okay! That’s great! As expected of Ram Hwayeon! Making such great decisions!”

“You’re happy though it doesn’t concern you personally.”

“How is it not my concern? Kijung’s business is my business! My business is Kijung’s business too! Haha, thank you!”

Leeha, excitedly thanking Ram Hwayeon with double thumbs up, hurriedly whispered to Kijung.

Watching this, Ram Hwayeon felt a strange sensation.


Would Leeha step up like that for her too?

A smile formed on her face as she mused.

‘… Of course, he would. That’s just who Ha Leeha is.’

If something was within his reach, he treated everyone’s issues as his own.

To call that simply meddling would be an understatement considering the warmth it contained.

―Kijung! Hey, hey, hey! Ram Hwayeon gave her permission!

– Hey, hyung? Is Ram Hwayeon here?

– Yeah, dude! I’ll tell Ram Hwajung right away! When she contacts you again, you should reach out to her personally. Got it?

– Hmm, if that’s the case, can’t we just handle it now?

– What? What do you mean?

Leeha was puzzled as he overheard Kijung’s whisper. Now?

However, Kijung was equally bewildered upon hearing Leeha’s whispers.

“Uh, excuse me, Ram Hwajung-ssi?”

“Yes?”

“Leeha hyung said he has something to tell you.”

Kijung and his party were already with Ram Hwajung as they wandered through the northernmost part of Shazrashian.

“Opp?! Okay. I’ll contact him right now.”

Ram Hwajung, who had been indifferent, brightened up and focused on the whisper.

Watching this, Kijung averted his eyes.

Raphaela, Rubini, and Hyein stared at Kijung, bewildered by the situation.


“Wait, did she just say oppa? That ice witch?”

“Well, from Minis’s perspective, Ram Hwajung might seem like an ice witch… Even from Fibiel’s perspective, she once was.”

Although Fibiel more often referred to her as an ice princess, Hyein could understand Raphaela’s sentiment as someone who also once fought guild wars.

“It’s amazing how close Ha Leeha has gotten.”

Rubini murmured, covering her mouth with her hand.

Her genuine surprise was evident, and Hyein, catching her small whisper, decided to tease her lightly.

“Are you curious about who he got close to, or how close they’ve become?”

“W-What? No, I mean…”

“Huh? What does that mean, hyung?”

“No, it’s nothing, Kay.”

In just two days of teaming up, Hyein had already figured out Rubini’s feelings.

Raphaela looked back and forth between Hyein and Kijung, shaking her head.

“Two questions arise at once. How did he step down from the guild master position, and how did he become the guild master in the first place?”

The stark difference in perception and intelligence between the two, yet belonging to the same guild and serving as the first and second guild masters, was astonishing.

As they bickered and joked around, Ram Hwajung finally walked up to Kijung.

“I want to join.”

“Okay! I’m sharing the quest!”

Master Kay, Raphaela, Hyein, and Ram Hwajung—the elite team of five was nearly complete, ready to capture Pyrot-Cocri.

* * *

Hearing that Ram Hwajung had joined, Ram Hwayeon asked Leeha,

“So, Ha Leeha, what do you plan to do now?”

“Well. I’ll have to stay here until today… But I might need to leave again from tomorrow.”

The day was nearly over in Middle Earth.

Leeha was beginning to feel anxious.

The recharge rate drops after a day in real-time.

If today passes, three more days in Middle Earth without progress would mean a decrease in his recharge rate.

Having barely managed to reach 2%, he was frustrated that wasting more time could mean never achieving 30%.

Ram Hwayeon understood Leeha’s anxiety but knew she had to hold him back.

“It might be better to wait for another day.”

“Huh?”

“Chiyou is a cautious woman, so she can probably wait for a day.”

Seeing the bewildered look on Leeha’s face, Ram Hwayeon continued speaking.

“But someone who deals with information can’t afford a two-day information blackout, right? What I’m saying is, let’s wait for another day. If I were Chiyou, I’d definitely keep an eye on you, Ha Leeha.”

It wasn’t just Leeha who was cautious about Chiyou.

The collection and analysis of information about users who had sided with the Demon King’s army were being handled not only by Ram Hwayeon but also by many guilds and individuals in Middle Earth.

Ram Hwayeon had analyzed those users as well, comparing her own tendencies and behavior patterns, revealing many aspects.

“I can tell.”

Ram Hwayeon spoke confidently to Leeha, who was staring blankly at her.

Leeha could only nod with a dazed expression.

“O-Okay. Then let’s wait for another day. Here—”

“No, your arrival at Gaza City might have already been confirmed through the Shinobigumi. Someone who usually has no interest in city management suddenly playing the role of lord? For two days? That would seem suspicious. Instead—”

“Instead?”

“Come with me. If you’re at the 〈Partisan Headquarters〉, Chiyou will feel reassured. She’ll try to trace your movements based on that.”

“That sounds more like me, doesn’t it?”

“Well, you said you’re going back to the Eastern New Continent anyway, right? Waiting in the Western New Continent for another day is more efficient than staying in Gaza City, isn’t it?”

Ram Hwayeon’s analysis didn’t stop at Chiyou. She had also thoroughly understood Leeha’s behavior patterns to an excessive degree, devising the most natural course of action for him.

“… Ram Hwayeon?”

“What, why? Why are you looking at me like that?”

“I’m so relieved you’re not the enemy. If you were gone… we might have genuinely been puppets in Chiyou’s games.”

Leeha deeply resonated with Ram Hwayeon’s words.

As she said, it would indeed be better to start vampire hunting from the Western New Continent.

Feeling a sense of security after planning, Leeha took a sip of the tea the butler NPC had served him.

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha and lifted her stiff neck proudly.

“Of course! You really can’t manage without me—”

“Uh?”

“—uh… ahem! No, nothing. By the way, you should definitely come to Hong Kong soon. No, you must make time for it.”

“Hong Kong? Why all of a sudden?”

Hong Kong, despite having its share of incidents, mainly held joyful memories for Leeha.

After all, what allowed him to stand on his own two feet in reality?

The memories of treatment and rehabilitation in Hong Kong had wiped out even the nightmares associated with Ram Hwajung’s kidnapping incident.

As Leeha’s mood lifted at the thought of Hong Kong, Ram Hwayeon spoke.

“Getting married.”

Pfffff────────gh!

Even Bailephus’s breath wouldn’t have been as fast as the tea Leeha just spat out.

“What the hell! What are you doing?”

Ram Hwayeon yelled at Leeha, but he didn’t react. Tea was dripping from his chin, but he didn’t even wipe it off as he blinked.

“What? Me? You want to marry me?”

“W-What are you saying! My hyung! Peng is getting married! So—”

Ram Hwayeon couldn’t fully endure Leeha’s intense gaze.

Though she tried to clear the misunderstanding, she felt a strong urge to nod. Yet, the pride of a Hong Kong woman managed to uphold her ‘womanly dignity’.

“—he asked me to invite you.”

“A-Oh, ha…”

Leeha let out a breath, something between relief and disappointment.

Seeing him exhale deeply from his belly, Ram Hwayeon felt similar emotions.

“But who asked you to invite me? Who?”

“Who else.”

“C-Could it be… Ram Hwayeon’s father? No, no! The chairman of the Ram Long Group?”

Leeha tried to speak normally, but he wasn’t in his right mind. Starting from the title issue, he didn’t know how to react, and Ram Hwayeon’s “getting married” kept echoing in his mind.
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“… Yes. The Chairman invited you.”

“Me? Why? I think I’ve received more than enough gratitude for rescuing Ram Hwajung—”

“I don’t know! Idiot!”

Ram Hwayeon yelled at Leeha and took out her crystal ball.

“Come to the partisan headquarters as soon as you’re done with work! Got it?”

“Y-Yes, I understand.”

Leeha couldn’t understand why Ram Hwayeon suddenly got angry.

Even Ram Hwayeon herself wasn’t able to grasp the true intentions of the Ram Long Group’s Chairman.

‘Ugh, why did Father suddenly— and what was with that laugh!’

She hadn’t received any special instructions from her father in a while. What did he want to know, and what did he want to see, for inviting Leeha?

While Leeha hurriedly finished his tasks and took out his crystal ball, a strategic battle was unfolding in the eastern part of the New Continent.

* * *

– And so right now, he’s in the Old Continent?

“Yes, that’s correct.”

– Are you sure there were no other members besides Ha Leeha?

“According to the vampire, yes. Even if there was someone else, the attacker was just one person. And that was—”

– Ha Leeha?

Sasuke nodded slightly. It was more than just a simple whisper.

Before leaving with Kaztor, Chiyou had prepared a crystal ball used during the national war.

The crystal ball had the capacity to capture even the battle scenes of Alexander and Lee Jiwon, acting as a necessary ingredient for a long-distance observation skill. However, it had its limits and was now only used as a reporting communication device.


Because whispers didn’t always reveal the expressions and nuances of the ‘reporter’, using the crystal ball was essential for full comprehension.

– Describe it again.

As Chiyou’s voice echoed, the vampire next to Sasuke trembled and stepped forward.

“It was a big black gun. As soon as we were hit by the first shot, all mana disappeared, making it impossible to transform into mist. Then, when dozens of bullets fired simultaneously, there was no way to avoid it—”

– Useless fools… Is there any other place besides there that was attacked?

“No, there isn’t, I swear by my blood, my queen.”

The vampire cut his left wrist with the nails of his right hand.

He reported to Chiyou, bleeding as if self-harming.

Chiyou watched the scene and smiled.

“You don’t know when Ha Leeha will appear again, so be on high alert. It’s possible someone might have been tracking us. Understood?”

“Yes, ma’am!”

Sasuke watched the scene without thinking it was excessive. He vaguely understood the authority of the Vampire Queen.

‘With a single word, she could make this vampire vomit all his blood or force him to face the sunlight tomorrow morning…’

The authority held by the pinnacle of a species was immense.

At present, Chiyou could exercise the most influence over specific groups among all Middle Earth users.

– Sasuke?

“Yes, oka-san.”

– What about Igor, Pyro, and Faust?

“Ahem, well… Igor and Pyro are being cared for personally by Bluebeard. Although Bluebeard muttered something strange a few hours ago, for now, he’s focused on completely reviving Ghibrid with them. Their recovery speed has indeed accelerated significantly.”

– Hmm, I see. What did Bluebeard say exactly?


“I couldn’t comprehend the exact meaning, but it was something about ‘someone tickling him’.”

– Tickling?

“Yes.”

When Sasuke lowered his head to show affirmation, Chiyou tilted her head in puzzlement.

She was irked by the expression ‘someone’ rather than the question of whether the Demon King’s Fragment could be ticklish.

When she fell silent in thought, Sasuke showed a faint smile of relief.

Chiyou didn’t miss it.

She quickly snapped back to reality.

– Faust.

The story about Faust was not over, so being relieved only meant that Sasuke’s information was insufficient.

“Ah! I have… nothing more to say.”

Sasuke bowed his head again, but Chiyou clicked her tongue and urged him.

―No, spit it out. Where was the last tracking location?

“It was near the capital of Kraven. Someone claimed to have finished the Dragon Raid in 18 minutes, but― when I got there, it was empty.”

―… I will make sure that this will reach Otto-san.

“Okasan! I, I am sorry!”

Sasuke knelt in front of the crystal ball.

Chiyou’s voice was far from gentle, and Sasuke knew how important it was that he had missed Faust.

As Sasuke banged his head repeatedly in apology, Chiyou waved her hand as if she understood.

―Alright, just this once… I’ll let it slide.


“I will devote myself fully!”

―Finish tracking Faust and Prea, and investigating the whereabouts of Ha Leeha and the Three Musketeers quickly. Also, don’t forget to set up the vampire surveillance network.

“Yes!”

As Sasuke nodded, the light from the crystal ball went out.

The vampire, who was about to leave the cave, looked at Sasuke and smiled.

“Are you that terrified of our queen even though you’re not a vampire?”

“It’s none of your concern, fool. To you, this place is reality, but…”

Sasuke sighed as he looked out of the cave.

―One of the reasons he had to hide his feelings for Chiyou.

Normally, he wouldn’t talk about such things, but he felt a kinship with the vampire, allowing him to speak his mind to the NPC.

‘If Otosan found out…’

He didn’t interfere with the game.

However, Chiyou’s desire was ‘his’ desire.

‘I almost became fish food in Tokyo in real life.’

Sasuke shook his head and went out to perform his duty.

Chiyou, meanwhile, organized her information and assisted Kaztor.

“How much farther do we have to go, sensei?”

“Are you tired?”

“Of course not! I’m fine, but I worry about you, sensei.”

Chiyou glided smoothly, massaging Kaztor’s shoulders.

She didn’t care whether an NPC could feel relief; her actions were well-calculated, knowing it would work given her experience managing a high-class fairy in Minis.

“We’ve come a long way.”

“Does that mean we’ll catch up soon? Where are they?”

“… I can’t say. Or rather, I think I know, but I’m not certain.”

Chiyou had already achieved more than half her goal by acting cute to extract even the tiniest bit of information.

‘I must never lose track of Ha Leeha and the Three Musketeers… heh.’

The incidental knowledge she gained about 《Arcane Bullet》 and 《Arcane Sniper》 alone was invaluable.

“Oh, there you go again. I have no clue what’s in the east of the New Continent… If I am to assist you and prepare for dangers, shouldn’t I know something too?”

“They are there.”

“… They?”

“Heh, that was the most absurd part. You who bicker among yourselves and believe your race is the most advanced on the Lope continent…”

“What?”

Chiyou couldn’t fully grasp what Kaztor was talking about. Kaztor grinned, baring his teeth.

His sneer was filled with derision, the kind only a race like the Dark Elves, who despised the entire human race, could muster.

Yet, Chiyou maintained the ability to smile back at that sneer.

The rewards for such patience were immense.

As Chiyou beamed without showing her discomfort, Kaztor continued.

“There is the nation of Toon. It’s far more advanced than your civilization. They’ll try to hide there.”

Chiyou was unsure how to respond.

* * *

“Toon’s… country?”

Even Chiyou, who was usually well-informed, had never heard this story before.

In fact, only two people in Middle Earth had ever heard the term “Saurus race” or any mention of “Toon’s Tribe.”

Just as Leeha and Freyha had been when they first heard it, Chiyou found it challenging to maintain her composure.

“Didn’t know, did you? Ha! It’s evident that to Le, you mean nothing. The authority you hold in the Army of Bluebeard doesn’t even reach that extent.”

Kaztor remarked, not missing the opportunity to capitalize on Chiyou’s ignorance.

Chiyou momentarily felt a surge of anger but quickly changed her expression.

“What do you mean! I just hadn’t heard it put that way before. I knew about it, of course. That’s why the Count sent us together, isn’t it?”

“Laughable, simply laughable.”

Kaztor retorted coldly, not swayed by Chiyou’s words.

The NPC, designed to trust no one but himself, wasn’t taken in by Chiyou’s silver tongue. Instead, Chiyou’s anger began to rise.

“So, you’re saying the 〈Arcane Sniper〉 is hiding in Toon’s country… a place with advanced civilization? A being that can end anything in this world with just one bullet?”

Kaztor smirked.

“Escaping my grip would require nothing less. Whether 〈Arcane Sniper〉 has reached there or not is uncertain, but heading towards it is a definite direction.”

“Mana tracing?”

“Who knows. I thought you would be more formidable. But if even Le doesn’t trust you, there’s no reason for me to share any more.”

Chiyou tried to pry further, but Kaztor remained silent.

Although she wanted to tear at Kaztor’s throat, Chiyou knew too well she couldn’t.

‘The old man never even sleeps. Bluebeard at least had vulnerable moments when he was asleep… incredibly frustrating old man.’

Kaztor, the dark elf, was always on high alert, at levels unattainable even for Chiyou.

— Sasuke! Toon’s Tribe, Toon’s country! Far East of the New Continent! Contact me as soon as you find any information!

— Ha, huh? Understood, oka-san!

Other than hysterically complaining to Sasuke, there wasn’t much she could do at the moment. It wasn’t that she directly expected this information.

How long had it been since she instructed Sasuke to gather information about Arcane Bullet?

Ever since she first learned about the existence of Arcane Bullet, she had tasked him, but he had yet to achieve it.

‘That just means Arcane Bullet is that rare. Fine… fine. I still need your strength to find Arcane Sniper, so I’ll wait and see for now.’

She looked at Kaztor, who had turned his back on her again.

The whereabouts of the vanished Faust, information related to Arcane Sniper, and the nation inhabited by Toon’s Tribe.

‘If it were Minis’ Dancer, she would never have sensed it.’

Chiyou shivered in anticipation.

‘In the end, it will all… all be mine. But first, Ha Leeha, you’re up next. I’ll pinpoint your location at dawn.’

Her lips curled with joy, nearly a drool-inducing grin of delight.

* * *

“Well then, I’ll be off! Goodbye, Koba, Hudid, and Harhei! See you next time!”

“Owk! Next time! Until next time!” Harhei, the divine guardian of the Gorilla paleo tribe, waved enthusiastically at Leeha.

Koba and Hudid also showed expressions of reluctant farewell, which made Leeha feel quite pleased.

“I’ll send you the wedding invitation via email. Just coordinate the date and time, and I’ll arrange for a flight.”

“No need to go that far. I’ll take care of it. Thanks for the consideration.”

Ram Hwayeon, who stood among the massive Mythical Creatures, now seemed naturally at ease. The discussions around Rampeng’s wedding and the promise of a future meeting in Hong Kong concluded as Leeha left the Partisan Headquarters and headed towards the center of the New Continent.

He had moved from Gaza City to the Partisan Headquarters last night, and now it was already past noon.

‘Trust. Now I must trust.’

The fear of taking the next step was genuine.

What if Chiyou had not yet used her tracking skill on him?

What if she used it precisely when he was crossing from the central to the eastern part of the New Continent?

Without Ram Hwayeon’s advice, Leeha would have been plagued by such burdens. But now, things were different.

Leeha teleported near the forest of the Corrupted World Tree and skillfully avoided the “Byulcho’s” gaze while heading east of the New Continent.
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“Bobae is detained for now, so hurry and pass through.”

“Thank you, Jin Gonggong!”

“Kikik, with Shin Nara coming here so often, I’m going crazy. Why don’t you take her away quickly?”

“Well, it’s not that simple. Please wait for a while.”

Leeha was cautious because not only Bobae but also Shin Nara and Lark were around. He couldn’t help but worry about what kind of questioning he might face if they caught him.

“Now that I think about it, what is Lark doing?”

Leeha knew better than anyone that Lark was not someone who would be idle. Though he was performing tasks for the “Sacred Alliance”, it was clear that those tasks weren’t particularly effective or meaningful.

“The western reconnaissance is merely part of the ‘great deception’ strategy for the eastern expeditionary force. A strategist of Lark’s caliber must have figured it out by now. So, is he just pretending to be fooled?”

Perhaps he couldn’t disobey orders because an NPC from the same Minis faction was the general commander?

“There’s no way someone who could trade sand in the desert would stay still.”

Leeha found Lark’s behavior somewhat puzzling. However, he had no time to investigate Lark’s actions at that moment. His first destination after safely passing through the Corrupted World Tree Forest was the Dark Forest.

* * *

Just as Leeha suspected, Lark wasn’t idle. Besides the information collected by the Virtue Knights, he had secret intel exchanged through Cheka. The price for the information that Cheka gathered and handed over was Lark’s interpretation of it.

They had established a symbiotic relationship, akin to a crocodile and a plover bird. They had already figured out about the Eastern Expedition of the New Continent and even noticed other incidents.

“I see… So that’s why the troop deployments around the Corrupted World Tree Forest are arranged in that manner.”

“It’s not confirmed.”

“The Holy Knight and the Saintess have been to Ezwen… received some kind of quest, and they are in the northern part of Shazrashian. The first one to discover Shazrashian’s northern region is Ha Leeha. Ha Leeha is related to the Holy Knight. Ha Leeha informed the Holy Knight of this, who then reported it to the Pope, resulting in the Pope giving some quest that requires a ‘Saintess’.”

“That’s correct.”

“Additionally, the person the Saintess Raphaela has recently inquired about is ‘Rubini’. Forget the grand nickname; her specialty is creating maps and tracking targets. There is a task requiring the Holy Power of a Holy Knight and a Saintess, they need to find a target for that Holy Power, and they are moving with a space skill expert, Hyein… which means the target they are searching for is not ordinary. Even if they find it, the chase won’t be easy.”

“You know well.”


Cheka admired how Lark pieced together and interpreted the fragmented information brought to him.

“Kee, the capital defense knight of Minis is not a position just anyone can hold. But then again, I should say I’m more impressive than that.”

Lark laughed, lightly patting Cheka’s shoulder exaggeratedly. Although Cheka showed a momentary displeased expression, he didn’t react further.

“But this is only my speculation. It will likely be correct, but we’ll need to confirm it.”

“Is there a way?”

“If you move, Cheka, that should be enough.”

“The northernmost part of Shazrashian is vast. Exhibiting myself directly is dangerous—”

“I know. So…”

Lark stuck his sword into the ground and leaned on it like a cane. Cheka could see that Lark’s mind was actively working.

“For a thorough search, we need a large-scale tactic. Cheka, you just need to follow the leader of that large-scale tactic.”

“Is there a way?”

“Wah! In Middle Earth, there’s only one group that comes to mind when you think of large-scale tactics. I’ll contact them. Cheka, you find and pursue that person. We can’t be the only ones missing out on this exciting event.”

“Hmm. I’ll get back to you.”

“Sure, sure.”

As Cheka’s form vanished instantly, Lark sighed deeply.

“Huuu… I’m exhausted. Won’t this ever end? It’s impossible to pit my second transfer skills against a dragon without a dragon to hunt.”

He grumbled as he headed towards the headquarters of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉.

* * *

“Ah, these no-teleport zones are really killing me. Aren’t you bored too?”

『Myong.』


Jellypong let out a weary sound as its tentacles drooped.

Even moving with three-dimensional maneuvering gear should be limited to a few hours. Having been on the move for over 12 hours, it was only natural that even a being treated as an “item” would get exhausted.

“At least we’ve made it to the Dark Forest, so we need to move quickly.”

Leeha had battled his way here for one reason: vampire hunting. It was too wasteful to leave behind such rare monsters that might increase his charge rate with each one he took down.

But the question was, where could he find these vampires and how could he deal with them?

“Hehehe… Heheheh. What would I have done without Gerda’s item?”

Leeha emerged from the Dark Forest and cautiously rummaged through his bag.

Even after contracting with the spirit of darkness, the reason Prea could not be removed was clear: Not only did Leeha know the exact locations of the top-grade spirits of ice and snow, but he also knew places with a concentration of these spirits, which enabled him to restrain Prea further.

‘A map showing the distribution of vampires!’

Leeha had already confirmed the existence of such an item from Luger and Kidd, and he knew approximately the number of vampire groups waiting near the Dark Forest.

‘But I can’t take it lightly. Even though I’ll be the one launching a surprise attack this time… It’s different from before. I can’t afford to let even one escape.’

Unlike the previous encounter, where he had intentionally let one escape to reveal his location to Chiyou, this time, he had to ensure complete secrecy.

If he didn’t aim for total annihilation, it would be difficult to attempt another attack the second or third time.

Knowing well the speed and maneuverability of vampires, Leeha slapped his cheek to heighten his tension. He quickly arrived at the first vampire distribution area in the Dark Forest. It would have taken longer if he had walked, but thanks to Jellypong’s three-dimensional maneuvering, he was able to ignore the terrain and obstacles and propel Leeha at top speed.

“How fortunate”, Leeha muttered as he loaded his rifle. The metallic sound of the bolt-action echoed loudly.

It wasn’t solely because of Jellypong’s assistance.

Leeha attached a silencer to the muzzle of his Black Bass rifle.

The flame silencer, which blocked muzzle flash, was unnecessary at that moment.

‘Distance: 1.2 kilometers. No nearby monsters. Terrain: inside a cave in a cliff.’

Leeha could clearly discern the environment.


The sunlight pouring from behind Leeha was now forming a deep pink twilight.

“Whew… This is just the beginning. If any of them try to escape, pursue them immediately, Jellypong.”

『Myong!』

Standing in the standard shooting posture, Leeha aimed at the cave in the cliff below.

As he gazed at the sheer walls of the mountain, which extended both upwards and sideways, Leeha began his countdown.

‘Once the sun has fully set…’

The pink hue turned purple, and the purple began to shift into navy blue.

‘When the moon rises in the sky… They will emerge.’

At exactly 18:03:53 according to Middle Earth’s time.

What in the world was the reason they were stationed here?

If their activity involved surveillance, this was the possible timeframe. From now on, they would likely spread out widely to start their watch.

So, when would they set off?

What time does the sun set in the eastern parts beyond the central continent of the New Continent?

A scope wasn’t necessary. He had already confirmed the wind direction and speed.

What he needed now was quiet patience!

“3, 2… 〈Mana Vaporizing Shot〉.”

As a sniper and former soldier, Leeha found significant help just from his ability to track notable sunset times.

In Middle Earth’s time, it was 18:04.

About 4 kilometers away from the Dark Forest, a cute sound spread out.

Poppp───────────……

At the entrance of a cave punctured into the cliff, as soon as Leeha’s bullet struck the ceiling, bats started to pour out.

Leeha’s vampire hunt had begun.

* * *

“One, two, three, four― thirty-seven. Okay.”

The first thing Leeha did was count the number of giant bats that popped out of the cave.

After confirming that the number didn’t significantly differ from the thirty-five that Prea had informed him of?

“Once more! One! Two! Three!”

Pop─, pop─, pop─, pop─……

Leeha’s lower thigh was firmly rooted on the earth.

Not only his left arm but also a stabilizer utilizing Jellypong’s tentacles was firmly supporting the Black Bass.

The only things moving were the rotation of his waist and his right arm!

The vampires, literally blindsided as soon as they opened their eyes, couldn’t help but get hit the longer they took to grasp the situation.

Even so, vampires were vampires.

The moment Leeha killed his sixth giant bat, their movements started to change.

“They’re desperately dodging while charging en masse. Good strategy, but……. Hehe, this isn’t going to work against me.”

The giant bats emerging from the cave flew toward Leeha with chaotic maneuvers.

Their complex movements and strategy, combined with their number of at least thirty, would have disoriented most long-range dealers.

Naturally, most would have tried to suppress the situation using a few powerful skills or area skills.

“〈Curve Shot〉!”

Pweeeeeeeeew──────────

But not Leeha.

The bullet drew a huge arc to the left as it exited the barrel.

Aimed at a bat that was trying to navigate around the cliff to the left, the bullet pierced its wing and hit the cliff on the opposite side. The giant bat, its body penetrated, started to fall, turning to ash.

“And for the rest of you― 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉!”

For the incoming swarm, the merciless multi-headed bullet sufficed.

The forty-four separated bullets created a network of fire, and no matter how evasive their maneuvers, more than half the giant bats were skewered.

『Meowmeow! Myong!』

“Hmm, it’s alright. Let’s first see if any more have fled to the other side…… But those guys are smart. In such a short time, they thought to send a messenger back, risking a collective massacre.”

The AI of the vampires, unable to fully grasp Leeha’s attack and judging they couldn’t win with traditional methods, had decided in that brief moment to ‘let at least one escape.’

Leeha examined meticulously with ‘Distorted Vision’ to ensure no more giant bats circled the right cliff or ascended directly above it.

『Myong, myong, meowmeow!』

Despite Jellypong getting agitated at the giant bat swarm approaching from less than 400 meters away, Leeha didn’t move until he was sure there were no additional movements.

“Eeeeeeek―!”

“I’ll avenge our clan!”

Some of the vampires transformed from giant bats into human form.

Watching them change their patterns again with ground attacks while also conducting flight attacks amidst their collective assault, Leeha gave a small nod of admiration.

If the vampires used mana for a full-scale battle, or if they engaged in a state of mutual awareness without being ambushed, he could foresee that it wouldn’t have been an easy battle at all.
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“But it’s not like we’re in World War II with the Japanese army. 《Banzai attacks》 don’t work in this era.”

However, that was not the case ‘right now’. That was the greatest misfortune for the vampires.

Leeha quickly scanned the swarm of vampires and pointed his finger at them.

Everyone’s gaze was fixed on him.

So, what was next?

“〈Terror Familiar: Summon〉.”

─────────────…….

Uncanny appeared at the tip of Leeha’s finger.

The giant bat that was flying had to stop flapping its wings, and the vampires that were rushing forgot to bare their fangs.

Leeha aimed at them.

“I already know it works on you guys…”

There was no need to test it on small-fry vampires.

Wasn’t it a technique that even worked on Chiyou, the second-generation Bathory, and the queen of the vampire clan?

Leeha aimed at them and quickly shouted.

“〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉!”

The cooldown was just one minute.

With more than 5,000 total mana, this skill combo was a piece of cake for Leeha.

As the forty-four bullets cleaned up all the remaining vampires, Uncanny also vanished.

“If this was a musket, I’d blow away the gunpowder smoke with a ‘whoosh!’. Right?”

『Myong?』


“Modern guns lack that a bit. Hehe.”

『Myong! Myoooong!』

Expressing gratitude for Jellypong’s incomprehensible response, Leeha carefully opened his item window.

“Now, it’s time to unwrap the gift… Please, please, this feels like gambling, but there is some sweetness to it.”

Closing one eye and squinting the other, Leeha chuckled at his trembling self and pressed the detailed window of Black Bass.

“Voila!”

〈Awakened Legend of Black Bass (First Enhancement―Lava)〉

(Untradeable)

Additional Effect―3: Awakening at Charge Rate 30% or more

Sleeping at Charge Rate below 10%

Charge Rate: 14.85%

The gamble was a success.

“Woohoo, haha! 14%, no, almost 15%, amazing!”

Leeha shouted in joy with curses.

‘If 12.77% increased by killing thirty-seven, then one small-fry vampire guarantees about 0.35% charge.’

Was the tightness in his chest a reward for his past efforts?

With a face almost bringing tears, Leeha opened the vampire achievement.

“When there are vampires around… Alarm function….”

With this valuable achievement alone, achieving a 30% charge rate in the dark eastern continent wouldn’t be impossible.

“Not the time for this. Jellypong, to that cave… No, hold tight!”


『Myong?』

Leeha aimed for the cave entrance drilled into the cliff.

Knowing the relationship between vampires and charge rates, every minute and second waiting here was a waste. Even the travel time using Jellypong was a waste.

“〈Ghost in the Shell〉!”

Bang─────────────!

“Ugh!”

『Myoo, myoooong!』

Jellypong’s tentacles quickly extended around them.

The moment the bullet reached the cave wall, Leeha and Jellypong were already inside the cave.

With an abrupt sensation of falling, Jellypong instinctively moved to support Leeha’s body, while Leeha, surprised, pulled back the bolt.

Beep. Beep.

“Wow… I came here on a hunch, but you guys are smart? If I moved using Jellypong, I might have missed you.”

“Wh-what―who are you―”

“You don’t need to know.”

Inside the cave, a vampire remained.

Leeha pulled the trigger towards the pale-skinned being who didn’t know what to do looking at him.

‘One thing was certain. It was smarter than a Manticore.’

The recharge rate due to additional charging was 15.18%.

Confirming that it was at least as intelligent as most humanoid monsters, Leeha had been exploring the vampire deployment area closest to his current location.

―Ha Leeha-nim?


―Oh, Blaugrunn-ssi! Did you find out anything?

Leeha received a call from Blaugrunn. Hearing the whisper in his ear, he frowned.

—

―Is there something like a golden lizard mixed in?

―…It wouldn’t have been possible to catch that with Faust’s ability.

―No, I told you. Faust roamed around Kraven and turned seven adult dragons into lich. And combining the power of those seven with Pyro’s…

This was one of the worst confirmations Blaugrunn had made. Leeha hated to bring it up but had no choice but to inform them.

―He even created an Ancient Lich Dragon. Eight liches, one ancient and seven adults. This excludes the two with Chiyou.

An adult lich dragon had almost the same power as a regular adult dragon. But an Ancient-grade? At least of those Leeha had encountered, there were only three Ancient-grade dragons.

An Ancient Gold from the metal dragon clan, Bailephus. An Ancient Red from the Chromatic Dragon clan, Kuzgunak’sh’sh’sh. And similarly, from the Chromatic Dragon clan and revered as an elder, onyx the Black. Considering the power of each one, it was no exaggeration to say that the Ancient-grade dragons were near ‘monstrous’ in Leeha’s mind.

―Damn it. Are all Chromatic Dragons just idiots?

―No, it’s not just Chromatic Dragons. They said three were also among the Metal clan. That’s why I could investigate.

―To meet Kaztor, we might have to deal with them first.

―Ah! That part is still unknown. If they moved together, Chiyou would have moved with Faust. If their relationship—

―Are you saying there’s internal conflict? Haha, then we could take advantage of them fighting each other.

Luger’s small laugh reassured Leeha and Kidd. Leeha agreed with that idea as well, and it pleased him that the fact found by the ‘Hunter’s’ intuition aligned with his own thoughts.

‘But I can’t just agree blindly.’

However, Leeha first offered a counter-opinion.

―It’s all speculation. I can’t grasp those details precisely, so you must decide for yourselves. Especially consult Bailephus, since he’s a dragon like them, and discuss with the Headmaster—

―No need for nagging. Even this much information…hmm, it’s… sufficient.

―You always have a hard time saying thank you. Anyway, do well! I’ll chase after you as soon as possible!

―No need to come, you fool.

―Feeling disappointed? Alright, alright.

Now, Leeha could understand them both thoroughly. With Kidd’s shy gratitude and Luger’s complaint implying he missed Leeha, Leeha responded, understood them, and ended the call after hearing a flurry of jesting remarks denying any such sentiment.

“Phew… What a predicament. Still, I must do my part first.”

If he had to choose between Pyrot-Cocri’s side and the eastern expedition team of the New Continent, Leeha was inclined towards the eastern side. Blaugrunn’s report did not solely contain bad news.

‘I had expected something like this when Ram Hwajung intervened, but this was much better news.’

Leeha found encouragement in the fact that the Silver Dragon, Arzenmacht, from the metal dragon clan, was included in those searching for Pyrot-Cocri. Although Ram Hwajung might have already known, Leeha first conveyed this to Kijung, who jumped for joy at the potential support from a dragon.

‘Somehow that side will manage. Somehow… Now, the East remains.’

Leeha cautiously surveyed the front, holding his breath silently. As expected, this location was also a cave. The only difference was that it was situated at the foot of a typical mountain rather than a cliff. nd now, giant bats started flying into the cave one by one. Leeha carefully counted the number of giant bats. According to Prea’s information, the location was to house around 25 bats, and currently, 23 had entered.

“Two are missing, but that’s good enough.”

This time, it wouldn’t be like ‘last night.’

Leeha quickly ran to the second deployment zone for the vampires and waited there continually.

“Alright, let’s go. 〈Camouflage Release〉.”

The sunrise had lasted until just now.

There was no reason for the ‘small fry’ vampires, who couldn’t operate under the sun, not to have returned to their base.

Therefore, Leeha had to recognize that twenty-three vampires constituted the confirmed count for this deployment area, and all he needed to do was handle them.

“Breaking statues is a first for me. Jellypong, don’t touch the statues, okay? I have to break them all!”

『Myong? Mew!』

Handling twenty-three vampires turned to stone was easier than eating porridge.

Leeha only thought about dealing with these quickly so that he could reach the third vampire area before sunset.

—

– Huh… hyung?

– Hey, Kijung. How’s it going?

– Did you call me?

– What? Who?

Perhaps to be safe, Leeha had been breaking the statues only with bullets and not using Toon’s dagger at all.

In the middle of this, he received Kijung’s message.

– Hyung, did you not call and send this person to me?

– What? What are you talking about? Who?

Kijung’s voice conveyed his confusion.

Leeha was also bewildered because he hadn’t contacted anyone.

Finishing his whisper with Leeha, Kijung bowed to the person standing before him.

“Hello… Pei Wu-nim.”

“Hao! It’s been a while, Master Kay!”

The guild 〈Hwangryong〉, which had the largest number of members in Middle Earth.

Among them, the fourth-ranked user and the strongest of them all.

Pei Wu, who had been rumored to have recently completed a second job change, raised his fist in greeting to Kijung.

– Fe, Pei Wu? Pei Wu is there? Why?

– That’s what I was trying to ask you, but… so it’s not you, hyung.

– What does Pei Wu want?

Hearing Leeha’s flustered voice, Kijung became confident.

– He wants to join. To be precise, he asked if there was a way for him to help.

– … Hunting Pyrot-Cocri?

– No, yes. That’s all there is, isn’t it? Or is it something else? What?

– What are you talking about?

– That’s why I contacted you! Anyway, hang on!

Kijung ended the whisper and quickly scanned Pei Wu and his surroundings.

Pei Wu continued to look at Kijung with an upright gaze.

Just from that alone, a tremendous aura seemed to emanate, but there was a line of 〈Hwangryong〉 guild members standing by Pei Wu’s side.

Even at a glance, they were the elite members of 〈Hwangryong〉.

‘Such personnel here…’

Why had they suddenly appeared?

Even Kijung, who lacked intuition, couldn’t fail to grasp the meaning behind “wanting to help”.

The issue was that even Pei Wu didn’t exactly know “what he was supposed to help with”.

‘So the story has gotten out but not clearly. Can it be interpreted that way?’

While he didn’t know about Pyrot-Cocri, Kijung did know that something critical was happening at the northernmost point of Shazrashian, and that the person acting as the responsible party was Master Kay=himself.

“Excuse me, Pei Wu-nim, how did you come to know about this—”

“Ha ha, don’t worry about maintaining secrecy. It was some intelligence that reached us 〈Hwangryong〉 guild members, and we are solemnly keeping that secret.”

“Oh, um… so only the four of you present here know about this?”

“Well, not just us—some members were involved in finding Master Kay.”

Pei Wu replied with a somewhat embarrassed expression. It was a part that Kijung was concerned about.

“How many of you then…”

〈Hwangryong〉 guild operated on a different scale compared to typical guilds.

If all their members had flocked to the northernmost point of Shazrashian and “turned it inside out”.

‘Chiyou is likely to find out. As Leeha hyung mentioned, that’s the worst-case scenario—’
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Pei Wu spread out seven of his fingers.

“Ah, seven people?”

Hearing Kijung’s question, he shook his head.

“Th-Then seventy people?”

When he shook his head once more, Kijung almost wanted to scream.

“Seven hundred… people?”

“As of the moment we found Master Kay, we have issued a recall order to everyone. Right now, they’re all at our guild headquarters.”

Kijung couldn’t close his gaping mouth.

Raphaela and Rubini were equally amazed at the scale of a single guild’s mobilization.

“Indeed… it was like that during the national war as well. It felt like a separate division composed solely of the Hwangryong guild…”

Listening to Raphaela’s admiration, Pei Wu smiled.

This was not an ordinary terrain.

As Leeha had directly experienced, there were many creatures here with levels and strength higher than the monsters that appeared in the western New Continent.

In other words, there were at least 700 individuals capable of searching the northernmost new terrain of Shazrashian, though everyone could guess that the actual number available far exceeded that.

Pei Wu never bragged about such things, so he just smiled.

In the meantime, Kijung quickly whispered to Leeha, updating him on the situation.

“How many days did it take you to find me?”

“About two days.”

“Seven hundred people in two days. You don’t know exactly what I’m doing, right?”

“That’s correct. We only knew it was a serious matter involving the Pope of Ezwen…”


In other words, even with such scant intelligence, they mobilized seven hundred people.

Kijung stared into Pei Wu’s eyes.

He could not detect any signs of deceit. The martial artist had the same clear eyes back then as he did now, avoiding Kijung’s gaze.

“Above all, it’s Master Kay’s matter. I considered it a chance to repay a life-saving debt.”

“Ah…”

Kijung had once risked his life to protect Pei Wu.

As a tanker, he valued his life not only for his role but for the sake of the entire team. He thought it better for Pei Wu to live than for him to die.

The martial artist, however, had kept that in his heart.

Pure sense of duty had driven him.

Hearing such words, Kijung couldn’t help but agree.

―Hyung, all the Hwangryong members have gone back. Besides, since it’s come to this, we should let Pei Wu join too.

―Think carefully! Even though Pei Wu might be an incredible asset, if all the Hwangryong members have returned but Pei Wu stays, people will surely realize something―

―Yeah. So, we have to finish this within two days.

―What?

―With all five members assembled and Rubini guiding us… We can’t afford to drag this out.

Kijung steeled himself.

Now that everyone had gathered, it was time to proceed swiftly.

―Kijung…

―Hyung. I’ll contact you after we deal with Pyrot-Cocri.

―Alright. I’ll help as much as I can.


Although Leeha said he would help, the person who was actually supporting Kijung was someone else.

Indeed, heaven helps those who help themselves.

“I don’t know if it’s related to Master Kay, but several hours ago, five of our guild members were annihilated in a particular area. They were skilled enough to handle typical monsters, but it was strange they couldn’t even manage a contact before dying.”

“Eek?! What?”

The vital evidence Pei Wu mentioned rekindled Kijung’s determination.

Kijung glanced at the Hwangryong guild members beside Pei Wu before he spoke.

“It would be an honor to have you join us. However, there is only one spot left, and we need to move with as few people as possible…”

“Alright. All of you, return.”

Understanding Kijung’s words, Pei Wu quickly commanded.

The guild members beside him gave disapproving looks, but Pei Wu ignored their warnings.

More than anything, he possessed confidence.

“Do you think I’ll be defeated?”

Though not very tall, Pei Wu’s deep voice made him appear much more imposing.

The guild members of Hwangryong had no choice but to activate the crystal ball.

With no further interruptions, Kijung finally had the chance to disclose the details of the quest.

“…The Demon King’s Fragment, Pyrot-Cocri!”

“To be precise, it’s a clone. A clone. It can’t exert all the power of the Demon King’s Fragment, but the abilities and skills are identical―something like that.”

“Ahem, Kay. Honestly, it sounds pretty much the same to me.”

“But the power is different. The energy! It’s not the full 100% Pyrot-Cocri, so, uh, according to Leeha hyung, it won’t exceed 20%, which should be enough.”

“20% is still a frightening figure. Even 10% would be terrifying―”


“Hyung, stop saying things that make us lose confidence.”

“―But it also means we might be able to win because Pei Wu joined us.”

Hyein greeted Pei Wu’s participation with a playful tone.

“Indeed. I am pleased to join with the greatest spatial mage and the strongest snow sorcerer in Middle Earth.”

Pei Wu also expressed his gratitude towards Hyein’s warm welcome.

At that moment, Hyein was practically the only user who could accurately calculate their strength. Even he thought that the raid would be impossible due to the lack of dealers, but Pei Wu joining them changed the story entirely.

‘It may not be complete altruism… but for now, we must utilize it.’

Unlike Kijung, he felt a heavy responsibility to find out who was behind Pei Wu’s involvement and what their true intentions were.

“Pei Wu, could you point out where your guild members were massacred?”

As the atmosphere turned friendly, Rubini approached Pei Wu with a question.

Pei Wu, impressed by the large holographic map Rubini had created in mid-air, quickly pointed to a spot.

“Here.”

“Understood. We should start a detailed mapping around that area.”

“Great! If possible, let’s finish this by tonight, right, Rubini?”

“Don’t feel pressured― I’ll do my best.”

Kijung indulged in the excitement surrounding Rubini.

With what could be considered the strongest possible team, he felt certain the quest would be completed.

However, their conversation was overheard by the person who had prompted Pei Wu’s involvement.

“What? What did you say?”

“You heard correctly. Pyrot-Cocri.”

“Holy—!”

Lark stood up abruptly.

After pacing around the table twice, he sat down quickly.

“I know Secret Police Cheka wouldn’t reveal anything. Nonetheless, this is a matter of extreme importance. Absolutely, no one should speak of this matter, no matter who asks.”

“Of course. However, if the king commands―”

“Okay. That’s a different matter. But that won’t happen.”

“Hmm. So, how do you plan to track them?”

Lark’s eyes gleamed at Cheka’s question.

What should his next move be?

‘I thought it might be something related to a dragon, but to think it’s a Demon King’s Fragment, its clone… Damn, I wish I could join them.’

It was Lark’s genuine wish to unlock his secondary class.

However, Pyrot-Cocri was not an easy target either.

Requesting to join? As Kijung mentioned to Pei Wu, all five slots for the quest were already filled.

‘Then, what’s my role? Hmm…’

Lark pondered for a moment.

In the blink of an eye, he made up his mind.

“I will finish within two days, and you mentioned the location where the Hwangryong members were killed?”

“Yes.”

Despite all the talk, it was far better to become ‘bait’ for the Eastern expedition than to just search the Western frontier aimlessly.

“I can’t let you all have fun without me. I’ll represent Minis and step forward, Cheka.”

“Do you think you can handle it alone? For the sake of our national interests, it’s better to persuade Raphaela and Rubini to create the perfect opportunity―”

“No, no. That won’t do. As I mentioned last time, it’s best when Master Kay moves in their own way. Tampering with the team they’ve set up would do no good.”

“If that’s the case, what do you plan to do?”

In response to Cheka’s question, Lark stretched while seated in his chair.

“Well, you know… the last hit is always the most satisfying. Just give me the location.”

Lark held the crystal ball and glanced at Cheka.

Cheka still felt that he didn’t truly understand Lark.

* * *

After reaching the area pinpointed by Pei Wu, Rubini meticulously utilized her skills.

Although a clone of Pyrot-Cocri wasn’t likely to be in one spot, they were confident it hadn’t left the northernmost region of Shazrashian, which sped up the search.

Knowing it was there and searching with that assurance, rather than blindly, made a huge difference. Coupled with the information that it was nearby, it felt less like a search and more like a real operation.

“〈Area Mapping〉, 〈Three-dimensional Scanner〉.”

Using precise mapping to create a detailed map and confirm the distribution of monsters, it was simple to identify their strength based on the ‘size of the dots’ representing them.

“No matter how many times I see it, it’s impressive. If we had this skill during the national war, all our detour routes would’ve been exposed.”

“I was elsewhere at the time. Master Kay, Raphaela? Can you confirm?”

“Hmm, it doesn’t seem to be here.”

“The ones clustered over there seem to be similar in size to that wolf monster, right? And the number of entities too.”

Kijung and Raphaela used their divine powers to check the dots on the map.

They had hoped to detect undead immediately, but none were sensed in the current group.

“I’m bored. I’m going.”

“W-wait a minute! Ram Hwajung! You can’t go alone!”

“Wolves. I’ll kill them quickly.”

Ram Hwajung occasionally grew bored, but the northernmost region of Shazrashian had quite a few monsters. Whenever she felt restless, she would venture out with Arzenmacht for a quick hunt.

“Hmm, I thought we’d find it quickly…”

“I’m sorry, it seems I’m not much help.”

The search that began at dawn had now passed into the afternoon and was heading toward evening.

As the sun began to set, Rubini was about to deactivate her mapping skill when Raphaela hurriedly stopped her.

“W-wait a moment! Rubini!”

“Why?”

“Master Kay! Those—five dots over here!”

Five dots appeared at the edge of her map.

Though they briefly appeared and then vanished again, Kijung could deduce the same thing as Raphaela.

“Hyein hyung, we need to bring Ram Hwajung.”

“Those five dots just now―”

“Yes. They’re likely Pei Wu’s… guild members.”

“Guild members? But I distinctly remember telling them to return―”

“No, not the ones who left.”

At Kijung’s words, Pei Wu made an expression of realization.

Having received a crash course on Pyrot-Cocri, he now understood the nature of the third Demon King’s Fragment.

“… So they’ve become undead.”

“Yes. Pyrot-Cocri may be near their movements.”

Shwaaa…!

Hyein quickly brought Ram Hwajung over, and after verifying the coordinates on Rubini’s map, he immediately began drawing a magic circle.

“Arzenmacht. Summon it.”

“Okay. Please, go ahead.”

They completed their preparations for battle.

In the minutes it took for Hyein to draw the magic circle, the five party members and one assistant had finished all their preparations.

“Here we go!”

As Hyein struck the magic circle with his staff, a burst of purple light erupted.

─────────────…

TL’s Corner:
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“Oh~ my? What is this?”

A strange voice echoed, but they had no choice but to focus on Rubini’s map first.

The map was drawing their attention more than the unbalanced groups before their eyes.

They couldn’t capture everything accurately from a distance.

However, they couldn’t possibly miss it up close.

Just as it had been with Toon and Ghibrid, there was a large red dot on Rubini’s map that seemed to have grown enormously.

“Then, that must be…”

“Pyrot-Cocri.”

Finally, they tore their eyes away from the map and looked at their target.

The girl-like entity in the middle, that must be Pyrot-Cocri.

And the number of male entities surrounding her in a protective manner was six in total.

Hyein was the first to notice.

“Six—”

“Formation! Moving out now, 〈Dinosaurization〉!”

Kijung was the first to act.

Having experienced the importance of preemptive strikes numerous times, he no longer hesitated.

At that moment, even at the far northern end of the Rope continent, the sun had set.

* * *

“Why are there six—”

“I won’t set up the field! 〈Holy Blessing〉, 〈Divine Sword〉!”


Before Hyein could say anything, Raphaela immediately supported Kijung.

In typical raids, it was common to set up a ‘continuous area healing field’, or ‘field’, and conduct battles within it. However, this raid was a small-scale one-party raid, and she decided to prioritize mana efficiency.

Kijung, being the tank, received an immediate defense buff, and Pei Wu, as the dealer, received an attack buff.

“〈Extreme Cold〉.”

Ram Hwajung also began casting magic immediately.

And Pyrot-Cocri didn’t just stand by idly.

“Annoying holy dogs, are they? Hey~, they want to play over there~? Keke!”

With her gesture, the five knights of the Yellow Dragon immediately assumed a defensive stance and charged towards Kijung and Pei Wu.

“Snap out of it! 〈Flying Dragon Kick〉!”

Of course, Pei Wu’s shout did not affect those who had already died and turned into undead.

However, what bothered him was having to face monsters that looked and moved exactly like his guild members.

Crack!

Even so, his strength lay in being able to deliver an upward kick that shattered a jaw.

With the sound of bones breaking, the monster’s body flew backwards, but that was it.

“Undead… It has to be completely destroyed.”

Despite its jaw being completely shattered and blood pouring out, it lunged back at Pei Wu.

This was the reason why players did not favor hunting undead.

Once something turned undead, it meant it was already dead.

In other words, it was difficult to completely destroy it with simple physical or magical attacks.

One needed weapons containing holy power or skills related to holy power, and if a vigilant healer was present, it was a manageable task.


“Then I’ll cast a holy power buff! 〈Striking Bless〉!”

Raphaela, noticing what was necessary from the single round of combat by Pei Wu, cast the appropriate buff.

“Thank you! Come on, rookies!”

Pei Wu dashed forward again, knocking down and luring his guild members.

“〈Dragon’s Eight Forms〉!”

“〈Hwangryong Kick〉!”

“〈Bai Su Arhat〉!”

“〈Vajra Palm〉!”

Was it the strength of a martial artist who had completed a second job change? Or merely the difference in skill between ranker Pei Wu and the other martial artists?

The five skilled individuals who could even explore the northernmost tip of Shazrashian, stronger than the western part of the New Continent, used their skills to chase Pei Wu, but he could handle them sufficiently.

Moreover, Ram Hwajung wouldn’t just stand by and watch.

“〈Jet Stream〉.”

This jet stream scattered extreme cold around the area.

She didn’t directly attack Pyrot-Cocri.

Being called a genius in Middle Earth’s play, she had no need for such simple attacks.

“Go.”

She knew well that she wasn’t the main focus of this quest.

It might have been a natural flow since recognizing the enemy as undead.

Pyrot-Cocri lost the chance to escape.

If she moved incorrectly and inhaled, it was certain her lungs would freeze immediately.


So, practically, Pyrot-Cocri was immobile, and if the path to her was clear thanks to Pei Wu?

『Pyrot-Cocri!』

It meant that a person clad in black armor could jump in right there.

“As expected! Those things were too poor in performance to be mere toys. It would have been better with this guy wearing the ‘Toon’ armor—or that cockroach-like guy over there! Or perhaps… an ice boy would be fine too?”

Pyrot-Cocri pointed at Kijung’s group with a regretful tone.

“Can you handle the one covered in Toon’s debris?”

Five individuals rushed at Pei Wu, while next to Pyrot-Cocri, a person wrapped in a robe still stood firm.

Thinking of him merely as a member of the Yellow Dragon Guild was Kijung’s mistake, but at this point, anyone would have thought the same.

Whoosh—!

He threw his robe and charged at Kijung.

If the path was clear between Pyrot-Cocri and Kijung, then it was evident that the one standing right behind Pyrot-Cocri also had a clear path to ‘Kijung’.

Although the sun had completely set, the twilight was enough to recognize his face.

『Waaah!? What, what’s this?! Why are you—』

When familiar voices and spells were cast, Kijung couldn’t help but feel horrified.

“〈Sol Blaze〉. 〈Corona Jet〉.”

It was Lee Jiwon.

In a non-ordinary state, while Kijung hesitated momentarily at the second-ranked runner’s charge, haein screamed.

“〈Reverse Gravity〉! Dodge, Kay!”

Rumbling——…!!!!

Hyein, who had constantly doubted there were six from the start, barely managed to confront it.

“〈Blink〉.”

Although the reversed gravity stopped Lee Jiwon’s charge, the Magic Swordsman used close-range teleportation without a hint of hesitation.

“Lee Jiwon—well, come to think of it, yes! It’s caught on the map! It’s hard to see because it’s engulfed by Pyrot-Cocri’s circle—but there’s indeed another point much bigger than the five other dots.”

Rubini hastily checked the map again.

Pyrot-Cocri’s circle was so huge that it engulfed the peripheral circles, leaving one much bigger point than the five dots.

Raphaela also shouted hastily, and Kijung, with a puzzled face, realized the simple answer.

“That’s not Lee Jiwon!”

Knowing the answer, his face twisted.

『Hyung Hyein? Then what? It looks like Lee Jiwon—』

“No, it is Lee Jiwon… But he’s undead.”

An undead Lee Jiwon stood there.

* * *

Pyrot-Cocri laughed while watching the momentarily perplexed raid party.

“Kikihit! Seems like a famous one, huh? Well, it was so troublesome! How can you control if they don’t listen? Kept charging saying, ‘Nope~ Sol Blaze is the coolest when it’s Sol Blaze~’ making me waste my energy! And… must have recognized it for sure! Damn.”

She even imitated Lee Jiwon’s tone and voice as she mocked.

The last thing Lee Jiwon said to her was recorded and replayed by Pyrot-Cocri.

『“Kuh! Hyein hyung! Over here―”』

“Ah, got it! Then this time, 〈Triple Gravity〉!”

“〈Ice Spike〉.”

Hyein and Ram Hwajung cast their spells simultaneously, but Lee Jiwon’s judgment was faster.

“〈Blink〉, 〈Giga Spark〉, 〈Blink〉.”

In an instant, he evaded, using an electric-type skill on the ‘Ice Spike’ that was aimed at him, redirecting it precisely towards Ram Hwajung, before blinking again to charge towards Kijung.

Kaaaaang―!

At the same time, he swung his sword.

『Kuh!』

Despite three people being deployed to stop Lee Jiwon, who wielded his sword imbued with black electric energy, they struggled even to contain him.

Even after clashing swords and quickly parrying three times, Lee Jiwon managed to use a minor electric-type spell, leaving Kijung genuinely impressed.

‘I’ve never seen him fight seriously before― As expected― is he really ranked 2nd?’

Even with sufficient health and defense, Lee Jiwon’s attacks, combined with magic, penetrated Kijung’s tanking stance. He displayed agility that allowed him to dodge Kijung’s counterattacks, even while Kijung was using his dinosaur transformation.

Once, at the Demon’s base, when monsters overflowed, Lee Jiwon single-handedly stormed through the base, herding and confronting thousands of creatures. The only ones who could stand against him were the combination of Alexander and Bailephus. The gap between the 1st and 2nd rank was so significant that Lee Jiwon, in all his modesty, conveniently acknowledged Alexander because of it.

He saw Alexander and Bailephus as the only worthy matches to test his full strength.

Excluding the Alexander-Bailephus duo, he had almost never fought any user seriously.

Because they all died before even making him use his full power.

“〈Soul Link〉!”

The undead Lee Jiwon, slowed by triple gravity, looked at Hyein and shouted.

“Keuuh!? Soul Lin―”

With a flash of red, a gigantic frog appeared from the area Lee Jiwon indicated.

A grotesque creature without a face or front legs, it only had two massive teeth and thighs that looked ready to burst!

“Kyaa! Hyein! 〈Holy Strike〉!”

Raphaela hastily used an attack spell, but Lee Jiwon’s Soul Mate, ‘Hotchkiss’, had already pierced through Hyein’s thigh with its massive teeth.

“Aaaargh! Unable to use skills!? Mana tangled up – what kind of status effect is this―”

“Kihihit! What is this, what is this! This guy’s more fun as a toy than I expected!? Using Hotchkiss this way!”

Pyrot-Cocri clapped, seemingly seeing Lee Jiwon for the first time.

Had Lee Jiwon not used Soul Link when he fought with her?

However, Lee Jiwon’s Soul Mate, who possessed the ability to entangle mana, was a monster even Ancient Gold Dragon Bailephus had a hard time with.

Hyein, now rendered useless due to skill unavailability, barely managed to detach Hotchkiss with her staff, but that was it.

“Hye, hye, Hyein?”

Hotchkiss wouldn’t return instantly.

Facing it for the entire 30-minute duration of Soul Link while unable to use mana?

“Now― you better brace yourself.”

“I’ll handle it.”

Ram Hwajung stepped forward, raising her wand towards Hotchkiss, shielding Hyein and Raphaela.

“Pyrot-Cocri hasn’t even moved properly yet. Ram Hwajung, you should go with Kay―”

“Yeah. That’s why I’ll handle this.”

“―Huh?”

Hyein wanted to pull Ram Hwajung back, considering the worst-case scenario, but Ram Hwajung had something she could rely on.

“They’re here.”

As she spoke, the sky flashed.

───────────────!

When the silver light, brushing away the night’s darkness, burst forth, a gigantic Silver Dragon hovered in the sky.

『Pyrot-Cocri!』

“Let’s go. Arzenmacht. 〈Ice of Abyss〉.”

『I’ll freeze it!』

Phuuaaa────────ㄱ!
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With the Silver Dragon’s breath, the strongest skill of the second job change White Snow was cast.

Witnessing the essence of the Abyssal Ice itself, rather than mere fragments or shards, Pyrot-Cocri finally moved.

The cold breath spread out in a fan shape, but Pyrot-Cocri’s instantaneous speed was much faster.

“You’re not even an Ancient Dragon yet! You! I will claim you!”

The direction she targeted was solely Ram Hwajung.

“Kuh, not yet—”

Feiou was in the process of finishing off the remaining two guild members, having already killed three who had turned undead.

『Ram Hwajung, damn it!』

Kijung struggled just to exchange blows with Lee Jiwon. He wouldn’t lose, but he couldn’t win either, resulting in a stalemate.

Hyein, who had lost her mana, was out of the question, and neither healer Raphaela nor scouting specialist Rubini had any special attack skills to stop Pyrot-Cocri’s assault.

『Ram Hwajung! 〈Ice Blast〉!』

Arzenmacht halted his breath and frantically cast a skill, but Pyrot-Cocri was already just inches away from Ram Hwajung.

“Ah….”

Ram Hwajung moved backward and cast her skill as quickly as she could.

While walking or running and concentrating at the casting moment wasn’t inherently difficult, the force of the onrushing Pyrot-Cocri was enough to break even her steely concentration.

“Kihi! Got you—”

The moment Pyrot-Cocri reached her arm out.

The space above Ram Hwajung’s head cracked open.

“I will avenge 20 years of hatred!”

This happened almost simultaneously as the space beneath Pyrot-Cocri’s feet ruptured.


“SURPRISE!”

From the moment Kijung had scouted earlier, Petyr, who had been chasing Kijung’s every move, appeared along with Quidam.

The sharp claws of the Miyaws, unusually glowing, were all aimed at Pyrot-Cocri.

Finally, the expression of the third Demon King’s Fragment twisted.

* * *

Pyrot-Cocri couldn’t avoid Petyr and Quidam’s attacks entirely.

Their ambush, prepared as a once-in-a-lifetime opportunity, was realized just before Pyrot-Cocri could escape, making her miss the perfect chance to dodge.

Thus, Pyrot-Cocri had to choose.

Petyr’s claws completely pierced through Pyrot-Cocri’s abdomen and were retrieved.

Quidam’s attack also pierced through her neck. The difference from Petyr was that Quidam couldn’t immediately retreat.

“Kihi… It really hurts. It really hurts. But—”

Even without fully grasping the situation, the most regrettable point for Kijung and the other users was exactly that.

“—you’ll hurt too, right? Kihi, I remember your face, from 20 years ago, oppa.”

Pyrot-Cocri’s hand was also piercing Quidam’s heart.

Deciding that one must die even if she took damage, Pyrot-Cocri had counterattacked Quidam.

“…Cough.”

“Back then, too—it was exactly like this. Although there wasn’t the 〈Holy Water Containing the Blood of Ahlo〉. It’s rare even among you, so how did you get it?”

Pyrot-Cocri’s death couldn’t be achieved by just an ordinary ambush, a fact that was ‘imprinted’ on Quidam as per the ‘setting’.

Thus, they had acquired and used weapons effective against undead.

The different color of the claws was the evidence.


Yet, Pyrot-Cocri did not die.

Moreover, counterattacking Quidam was far more fatal than anything else.

“What the… How—?”

Even the number one psychopath in Middle Earth admitted by all users, Petyr, was bewildered to the point of barely being able to speak clearly.

“Eat shit, Pyrot-Cocri.”

“I don’t want to! Eating crap causes cavities, cavities!”

Though much of the smile had faded from her face, it signified that Quidam and Petyr’s attacks were somewhat effective. However, failure to destroy Pyrot-Cocri with one strike was tantamount to admitting defeat for them.

“… Petyr.”

Quidam turned his head to look at Petyr.

Petyr, filled with confusion, held out his hand, questioning.

“Leader! Even your secret weapon won’t—”

“My vision isn’t just about killing Pyrot-Cocri.”

“Then why risk such an assassination? You know that an unsuccessful assassination only kills the assassin—”

“A cat has nine lives because it hasn’t gathered all nine yet. My vision is just beginning. Break the curse on the Midnight Circus Director. While the former Director and I have walked the same path, you must not inherit this fate—”

Black blood trickled from Quidam’s lips.

Pyrot-Cocri watched the scene with a laugh.

“Of course! Of course! There’s no way you wouldn’t know! The one who came with you 20 years ago also met ‘this’ fate! I knew you couldn’t be unaware, oppa!”

Pyrot-Cocri slowly stepped back.

What would happen when the two who had been fighting fell apart?

In Pyrot-Cocri’s hand, withdrawn from Quidam’s chest, was the most crucial element for him.


“Deputy Director. This is my final command as Director. Kill me and obtain the ‘Ninth Life’—”

It wasn’t Quidam’s heart that was still pulsing.

It was the very essence of the Midnight Circus Director.

“—Inherit the position of Midnight Circus Director. This is my last surprise order to the Deputy Director.”

Shhaaah…!

Light emanated from Petyr’s body.

He stared blankly into the void for a moment.

Then, at that moment, Pyrot-Cocri spoke.

“I am Pyrot-Cocri, the Warden of Graves. I will crush your soul and take your body.”

A faint sound echoed as Quidam’s heart shattered.

* * *

『Kugh— Hyein hyung! What’s going on!?』

“I-I’m not sure either—but the crucial thing is that the one who came with Petyr has now become an enemy!”

While struggling to clash swords with Lee Jiwon, Kijung shouted, but Hyein couldn’t give a clear answer.

Judging from the snippets of their conversation, Hyein could deduce that Miyaw, who came with Petyr, was an NPC and even the Headmaster of the Midnight Circus.

But what were they discussing afterward?

If given enough time and space, it wasn’t too difficult for Hyein to figure out.

The problem was that time and space were precisely what they lacked.

“Buhehehe! Damn it, damn it, the Diiiireeeector!”

The black blood that had been pouring from the chest where his heart was torn out had already stopped.

The only visible difference between the Quidam who had just been speaking to Petyr and the one now was that he had begun attacking Petyr.

─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─…!

The two Miyaw assassins started attacking each other with a ferocity determined to claim their adversary’s life.

Pyrot-Cocri smiled through a weary expression.

“Heheh, cats are always at their best when they dance with each other.”

『Pyrot-Cocri! Yet another victim! ‘Ice Wall!’』

Thud!

A massive ice wall appeared between Pyrot-Cocri and Ram Hwajung.

“I told you, those who haven’t ascended to Ancient shouldn’t interfere!”

Pyrot-Cocri bounded off the ice wall and leapt into the air.

He was moving in the direction of the dragon-formed Arzenmacht.

On the other side of the ice wall, Ram Hwajung, Hyein, Raphaela, and Rubini couldn’t see what was happening.

Only Ram Hwajung clenched her teeth as she heard the dragon’s roaring and the sound effects of various spells being cast from beyond the ice wall.

“Grrr, Arzenmacht…”

Mana particles continued to gather into her body.

While Pyrot-Cocri’s sudden assault had significantly slowed her casting speed, she hadn’t completely lost focus.

She moved slowly, circling around the massive ice wall. Every second and minute counted in this critical situation.

Fortunately, the healer in Pyrot-Cocri’s raid party was still alive.

“’Quick’, ‘Haste’! Ram Hwajung, hurry!”

“Kay has Lee Jiwon pinned down, Petyr is dealing with another undead, and Fayou is taking care of the other guild members! If we can snare them just once, we’ll definitely have the advantage!”

Raphaela and Hyein shouted simultaneously.

While the battle’s tide was chaotic, each knew clearly who their enemy was.

More importantly, their party currently had the upper hand in power balance, so all they needed was to bind Pyrot-Cocri and land an unavoidable blow.

『Hyein hyungniiiim!』

“Kay!?”

『Run! They’re suddenly heading your way!』

What was happening beyond the ice wall?

Pyrot-Cocri’s true prowess lay in her ability to control others as she wished.

It was a top-grade monster that could instantly calculate that the scattered battles had become unfavorable for it.

Turning the undead Lee Jiwon towards Ram Hwajung and then deciding to face Kijung directly was an easy calculation for it to finish.

Flash—!

Lee Jiwon appeared above Ram Hwajung and Hyein.

For a magic swordsman who used Blink to freely move short distances, even a fully transformed Holy Knight could not match his speed.

Flash!

Another flash of light erupted simultaneously.

『Ram Hwajung!』

“Arzenmacht—”

『Use it!』

Although Arzenmacht did not specifically target anyone, Ram Hwajung already understood his words.

Moreover, because of the ice wall, targeting Pyrot-Cocri was a long and steep road.

In other words, it meant to prioritize saving her life instead of using a skill against Pyrot-Cocri!

Arzenmacht and Ram Hwajung simultaneously cast their magic towards Lee Jiwon.

『〈Area Freezing〉!』

“〈Ice of the Abyss〉.”

Along with the slowing of movement speed range magic, one of the strongest spells of the White Snow profession group, Ice of the Abyss, was fired at Lee Jiwon.

“Tsk, a toy too precious to lose—but there’s no choice.”

Pyrot-Cocri, climbing the ice wall belatedly, frowned in disappointment.

“Kehihi! But it’s a splendid demise! 〈Corpse Explosion: Death Throes〉!”

She quickly chanted while pointing at Lee Jiwon and then jumped to the other side of the ice wall.

The ice wall created by Arzenmacht served as Pyrot-Cocri’s shield at that moment.

Ice of the Abyss accurately hit the undead Lee Jiwon.

However, his body had already started to swell. Arzenmacht shouted with wide-open eyes.

『Ram Hwajung!』

Everyone already knew something had gone wrong.

Although Ram Hwajung understood Arzenmacht’s calling out her name, she shook her head.

“No, together! I can’t do this alone—”

“Hurry up!”

“No—”

“Casting! 〈Holy Barrier〉!”

As Hyein pulled Ram Hwajung behind Raphaela, a burst of explosive light erupted with the barrier.

Boom—!

All the mana in the undead Lee Jiwon’s body exploded and dispersed into the air.

The dragon’s death throes were swallowed by the explosion.

* * *

“What is this….”

『Hyein hyung! Ram Hwajung! Raphaela!』

Paeu and Kijung ran towards the wreckage of the explosion.

What lay on the ground was the body of a silver dragon.

『Informing the Lord… Hang in there… A bit more…』

Hold on.

Arzenmacht barely opened his mouth as if he was running out of breath.

“Don’t speak while I’m treating you! 〈Great Heal〉, 〈All Recovery〉!”

Raphaela focused all her power on the dragon that had yet to die, while Hyein urgently assessed the situation.

“Ram Hwajung, what about mana? Can you use a skill?”

“… No mana.”

“Damn it… That so-called Lord is probably the Platinum Dragon Bahamut—but until he arrives—”

“Kehehe, do you think you can survive until that old geezer Bahamut arrives… That is the real question. I haven’t completely sealed off the space, but disrupting you will be more than enough!”

With Arzenmacht’s mana connection severed, the ice wall melted away.

From there, Pyrot-Cocri approached Kijung and his party.

Hyein could not use a skill due to mana blending.

Ram Hwajung had depleted her mana.

The silver dragon was incapable of combat, and Petyr had left the battlefield while chasing Quidam.

TL’s Corner:
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“The remaining members are…”

『It’s just me and Pei Wu—but I’m—』

Shuoooong—!

In that moment, Kijung’s 『Dinosaurization』 was undone.

“—about to be like this…”

“Ahaha! I knew it! I knew you couldn’t maintain that Toon’s shell for too long! Haha! I expected this!”

Pyrot-Cocri clapped her hands joyously.

Despite being struck several times by Quidam and Petyr’s attacks, as well as Arzenmacht’s skills, she still remained in robust condition.

On the other hand, in Kijung’s group, neither Kijung, who could no longer transform into a dinosaur, nor Pei Wu were left capable of much.

Those two were virtually the entire fighting force.

“Since I’ve lost many precious toys, I guess I need to make some new ones. Who. Would. Be. Good.?”

Pyrot-Cocri pointed alternately at Kijung’s group.

With the glimmer in her eyes of a child choosing a toy, she started to approach slowly.

“Master Kay…”

Rubini sidled up to Kijung.

Although Kijung momentarily found it strange when Rubini poked at his side, his gaze soon changed.

“Pei Wu, do you have any attack skills left?”

“Yes, but—”

“That probably won’t last long either. But it will definitely last at least five seconds. Raphaela! Can you focus your healing on me?”

“Kay! You’re not planning to?”


Hyein had figured out which skill Kijung was going to use.

But it was risky.

“No! If you die, we’d lose our tank. Then the Pyrot-Cocri raid—”

“There’s no other way. Raphaela! Can you focus healing on me?!”

“Well, I’m currently restoring the dragon—its body is poisoned with cadaver toxin and the ongoing damage is immense! I could direct healing toward you, Master Kay, but it would be limited to once. Interrupting healing twice might leave the dragon…”

Interrupting Hyein, Kijung asked Raphaela, but Arzenmacht’s state exposed to 『Corpse Explosion: Death Throes』 was critical.

If there had been any healer other than Raphaela, the “Saint”, the ongoing damage would have likely already killed them.

“Hm~ What are you planning? Do you still have some fun tricks up your sleeve?”

“I do. Hoo, hoo. Pei Wu, are you ready?”

“I will do my best.”

Seeing mana particles gather at Pei Wu’s feet, Kijung steadied his breath.

Paaat—!

He finally pointed his sword toward Pyrot-Cocri.

“Without Toon’s shell, you can’t do anything, oppa… are you confident?”

Pyrot-Cocri’s face showed confidence even with the sword pointed at her.

Kijung didn’t respond to her question. However, he needed to shout.

“Five seconds tops! Five seconds tops!”

“Kay, Kay? What are you suddenly shouting about…?”

His unexpected exclamation left not only Hyein but also Raphaela and Pei Wu momentarily bewildered, but Kijung, finally composed, readied himself for what was to come.

“One! Come forth! 『Sacrifice』!”


────────────……!!!!

The sword Kijung held erupted in light.

Pyrot-Cocri immediately recognized what the light was.

“Gaaaah! Damn it! It’s Ahlo’s Handcuffs!”

Through her distorted voice, another voice was heard.

“Damn it, I knew it was suspicious ever since Doctor Doom was around! We can’t hide perfectly—anyway! Let’s do this together! 『Red—Sun』!”

Lark, who came rushing through the bushes, wielded a sword already glowing red-hot.

Lark’s mightiest attack skill struck the immobile clone of Pyrot-Cocri.

“Aaaaaaaahhhhh!”

Fiery flames roared as she screamed, but her body wouldn’t move.

Just like a witch being burned at the stake, she had to watch while unextinguishable flames consumed her body, unable to do anything.

“Who from Red—! Who did this—!”

“Screaaaam, it’s wearing off so fast! Hurry up, Pei Wu!”

“I’m coming now—! 〈Ultimate Technique: Dragon and Tiger Strike〉!”

shot toward Pyrot-Cocri like a flick of a finger.

However, to other players, it didn’t look like Pei Wu was charging at Pyrot-Cocri.

“Whoa, is that a second job skill?”

Wrapped in green scales resembling an Oriental dragon and a tiger with golden fur, both struck Pyrot-Cocri simultaneously.

“Youuuuu guys—!”

The combined roar of the dragon and tiger shattered Pyrot-Cocri’s bones.


“Never, everrrrr!”

Attacking the burning enemy was no difficulty for Pei Wu, who neither missed nor failed to counter.

“Unforgivableeeeee!”

There was a clear sense of animosity in Pyrot-Cocri’s voice amidst Pei Wu’s attacks.

“Pei Wu! Are you almost done? Hyein, what about teleportation?”

“I still… can’t use my mana. And how did Lark get here—”

“This is crazy, Master Kay—”

“It’s wearing off! 3 more seconds, Pei Wu!”

“I’ll turn you into toys!”

Kijung’s 〈Sacrifice〉, which was expected to last at least five seconds, lasted longer than anticipated.

Although Quidam and Petyr’s attacks were effective, it wasn’t sufficient to completely destroy Pyrot-Cocri’s clone.

“Fe, Pei Wu! You need to come back now! If you also become undead, we’ll be annihilated!”

“Gah!”

Heeding Hyein’s anxious advice, Pei Wu made a grand leap backward at exactly 2.97 seconds.

As Pyrot-Cocri’s eyes flipped and charged at the dragon and tiger, Pei Wu canceled the skill immediately.

“Despite landing many critical hits—even destroying vital points, the enemy doesn’t die. Unless we have more power from 〈Striking Bless〉…”

“Does that mean the undead itself has no vital point?”

Pei Wu shook his head, struggling to recall the sensation in his fingertips, while Lark swiftly analyzed the situation.

Even undead minions she’d created needed divine power to be subdued; defeating Pyrot-Cocri with mere physical attacks was impossible.

“As long as we can’t extinguish Red’s—”

“Screaaam! Put out this damned Red’s fire!”

As if answering Lark’s words, light flashed from Pyrot-Cocri’s body.

“… By heavens, no matter how undead—”

“How can we defeat it?”

Raphaela covered her mouth in astonishment.

Pei Wu felt as if all the blood drained from his body.

“Hooo… Such a poor performance.”

Previously one, her body now divided into three parts.

Lark’s strongest skill had only affected one of them.

“Why? What happened? I can’t see—”

Rummaging through his bag, Kijung shouted in panic.

A side effect of 〈Sacrifice〉 had left him with only 1 HP, rendering him blind.

The remaining Pyrot-Cocri’s parts were fusing together, while the burning part was left to sizzle away.

Kijung’s inability to witness this dreadful sight was, in some ways, a blessing.

“She shrank in size. Her appearance looks much frailer than before—”

“To put out the Red’s fire, she chose to sacrifice part of herself. Damn, and to think my skill could only weaken her by a third of her power.”

Hyein and Lark deduced the meaning behind Pyrot-Cocri’s transformation.

Unfortunately, this did not provide a solution to their predicament.

Although Pyrot-Cocri’s power had weakened, the question remained: how would they continue the fight?

Their original members hadn’t recovered and Kijung was now in a critical state.

Should they take on Pyrot-Cocri, weakened by Lark’s skill and Pei Wu’s combination, in this condition?

‘No, only two more undead will emerge. I must prevent the worst-case scenario of Pei Wu becoming undead. It’s better to have her escape…’

Since Hyein had already experienced how irritating Lee Jiwon had become as an undead, it was imperative to prevent another Ranker from turning into an enemy.

“We should have… called for more helpers. Even if Chiyou found out, it would have been better…”

“What about Bahamut? Rubini, do you know the location of any dragons nearby—”

“No… there aren’t any.”

Raphaela was mechanically casting heals on the Silver Dragon but had already lost her battle will.

When Hyein reacted to the word ‘helpers’ and asked, rubynee shook her head.

The fortunate part was that the space wasn’t sealed.

It meant they could flee anytime should the need arise.

That was Hyein’s final option.

But if they did, Pyrot-Cocri would have more freedom and roam around unstoppably.

Ultimately, they wouldn’t be able to stop her, and Bluebeard’s side, including Chiyou, would learn about her existence and location.

‘Still, we must survive. Even if we stay, we will all turn into undead, and Pyrot-Cocri will move again afterward anyway.’

If choosing to fight only buys a few hours, they needed to flee immediately.

His rational mind had already finished all calculations.

Seeing Red retreat, Lark had also come to the same conclusion.

The strategy of tailing Cheka to glean the fruits of victory had become an empty pursuit.

“He… Hehe. As expected, it was a tough quest. I knew it wouldn’t be easy—”

Kijung expressed his disappointment by cutting off his words.

With narrowed eyes, he barely looked in the direction of Pyrot-Cocri, but it was not a fightable situation.

The damage he had received could not simply be fixed with a few potions.

“A creature using the shell of Toon and the cuffs of Ahlo… Agile cockroaches, dragons, ice children, they’re all fascinating, but you have been the most amusing. So, I’ll turn you into my toy first.”

Pyrot-Cocri’s clone walked toward Kijung.

He walked toward her as well.

“Kay!”

“I’m… still a tank after all.”

Though his gaze toward Hyein was unstable, Kijung did not hesitate to stand in front of them.

At that moment, rubynee, who had been watching the map with a prayerful heart, shouted.

“Dr-dragon! It’s a dragon!”

“What!? Bahamut? Is Bahamut here?”

“No, it’s not as big as Bahamut— but it is— definitely a dragon!”

“Bailephus?”

“No, no! It’s not that either! This dragon is… smaller!”

Hyein, Lark, and Pei Wu each offered guesses, but Rubini only shook her head.

The three men soon hung their heads.

If it wasn’t Bahamut, what use was any other dragon?

But unlike the dejected men, there was one who raised his head.

Kijung began to laugh as if he was releasing something stored deep in his chest.

“… Ha… Haha!”

“Why are you laughing? Do you think a single dragon will change anything?”

As Kijung laughed, Pyrot-Cocri also put on a sneering smile.

Kijung and Pyrot-Cocri had drawn close enough that she could hear all the words coming from behind him.

“Ahaha! It’s fine! Everything will change! Not just because of the dragon!”

When Kijung shouted manically while laughing, Pyrot-Cocri shook her head.

“Kik! If it’s not because of the dragon, then what—”

Kijung took a breath and raised his head.

Then he shouted loudly.

“Fire, Leeha hyung──────!”

“What—what? Ah!? Toys!”

Pyrot-Cocri suddenly raised her head and turned around.

In the night sky, the brightest light was neither the moon nor the stars.

A light brighter than either pierced through Pyrot-Cocri’s body.
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“Huh?”

“What’s happening all of a sudden?”

Pei Wu, Hyein, and Lark were bewildered by the sudden change in the situation.

What was the light that suddenly pierced through Pyrot-Cocri?

It was an absurdly extraordinary shot to consider as a normal attack.

“It felt like something—something flashed! What was that?”

The attack itself disappeared immediately after hitting Pyrot-Cocri.

Because of this, raphael, who was focused on treating Argengmart, had no idea what had happened.

However, there was someone else who knew apart from Kijung.

Rubini saw another shadow overlapping the flying dragon. There was no doubt that it was Leeha.

“Oppa!”

Ram Hwajung’s intuition, different from Kijung and Rubini, purely felt Leeha’s presence.

Even though there were countless differences in what the skill that hit Pyrot-Cocri was, where it came from, and how it was executed compared to the past, she believed.

Ram Hwajung ran to Argengmart and hugged him as he recuperated.

“He’s here.”

『Ha Leeha… Blaugrunn.』

The visibly exhausted silver dragon smiled faintly and looked towards the ‘flying dragon.’

Kijung couldn’t contain his laughter. The situation was still on the edge of defeat in practical combat.

But from now on, it would change.

“Ha! Did you see that? I said it would change! Whether one dragon or one person—it changes. Well, neither of them is an ordinary dragon or person anyway.”


Kijung already had the face of a person who had won the final bet.

“Kaaak— Kah, what!? What is this—what?”

Pyrot-Cocri looked at the hole in her chest with an expression she couldn’t understand.

“What is this!? I’m defeated by such a trivial—this trivial attack? No! That’s impossible!”

Shaking her head like a madwoman, she tore off her left arm.

As soon as it separated from her body, it turned into an unrecognizable mass of bones. She stuffed it into the hole in her chest and kept screaming.

“Attach! Attach, quickly! Attach! Fill up, I said!”

Even without one arm and barely able to maintain her balance, the girl, who was a Demon King’s Fragment, screamed wildly.

It was a grotesque yet somehow eerie scene that everyone watched with a stunned expression.

In the meantime, Lark’s analysis persisted.

“Is it like drawing the red line… It seems she can turn parts of her body into bones and use them to heal other parts. Pulling out an arm to fill the chest—it’s grotesque but…”

“It seems so. That would explain why attacks on lethal or instant death areas were ineffective—”

“Indeed, it might not have been ineffective due to the lack of holy power but because she was capable of internal recovery faster than the attacks.”

Lark’s assumption spread to Hyein and Pei Wu, forming a concrete hypothesis.

If her clone could do it, it was highly likely that Pyrot-Cocri’s main body possessed the same ability.

“Indeed… The Knight of the Rainbow.”

Lark was the first to notice it.

Hyein realized anew that the ‘Knight of the Rainbow’ standing beside her was a human widely notorious among the New Continent Paleons.

“Why—why isn’t it attaching? How come? What is this black thing anyway!?”

“Black thing?”


Kijung squinted, focusing on Pyrot-Cocri.

Although his vision hadn’t fully recovered, Pyrot-Cocri was close enough for him to see her clearly.

The hole in her chest was different from one caused by a conventional attack.

‘The wound surface… It’s as if something is squirming where the hole was made…’

Could the ‘black thing’ Pyrot-Cocri mentioned be that?

It seemed a bit too substantial to be smoke but still more gaseous than a fully tangible substance.

“Hurry—tear this, tear this thing out—”

*Bang*

Pyrot-Cocri’s head lost its support and dropped.

Only after the attack that completely severed her cervical spine were three gunshots heard with a strange resonance.

“Hyung, you were never an ordinary person, but now you’re even more unbelievable. Hahaha…”

Kijung, dragging his legs, stood in front of Pyrot-Cocri’s dismembered head.

“Wh— Why can’t— Why isn’t this attaching?”

“That… How would I know?”

Then he slowly raised his sword.

His mana was exhausted, his stamina was at its limit.

He had no skills left, and more importantly, he barely had any energy to move.

But the enemy was in a similar state.

The grayish body, flailing around, had already fallen backward, and the head, rolling on the ground, couldn’t even speak properly.

In that case, Kijung could handle it well enough.


“What!? Black― Black Bass? Your name is Black Bass?”

As Pyrot-Cocri’s eyes widened as though she had figured something out, Kijung gripped his sword with both hands and struck Pyrot-Cocri’s head.

“May you never wake from your eternal slumber. Haaah!”

The eerie sound of the sword piercing through bone echoed, and at the same time, light burst forth from the bodies of Kijung, Raphaela, Hyein, fayou, and Ram Hwajung.

From afar, another light was emanating in the night sky.

Bababam—!

The sound of achievement fanfare rang simultaneously in the minds of the six.

* * *

– Eong-ah. I’ll contact you after dealing with Pyrot-Cocri.

– Kijung…

– This is our chance. The clone is gone, and the five of us are all in good shape. Given Lubinu-nim’s guidance, we can’t afford to delay any longer.

-Alright. I’ll move as quickly as I can.

Crack!

Breaking the statue of the twenty-third vampire was weighing heavily on Leeha’s mind.

Kijung was waiting for his help.

He couldn’t join the party, but he could definitely be of assistance.

‘Just being able to detect Pyrot-Cocri would be quite helpful… but.’

Leeha opened Black Bass’s item window.

〈Awakened Legend: Black Bass (1st Enhancement―Lava)〉

(Non-tradeable)

Additional Effect―3: Awakes at 30% charge

Sleeps at less than 10% charge

Current Charge: 23.33%

‘It charged an additional 8.15%. Judging by the location Prea provided, there’s another vampire den nearby. There are about thirty vampires there too.’

Each vampire charged around 0.35%.

Even if the number was slightly less than Prea’s information indicated, handling that place would suffice to achieve a 30% charge.

Could he get there in time?

Leeha envisioned a virtual battle considering the current strength Kijung possessed and Pyrot-Cocri’s combat pattern.

“It’s not easy…”

Even adding Arzenmacht would barely balance it out to a 5:5 ratio.

If Pyrot-Cocri created other ‘undead’, the variable would likely work in favor of the Demon King’s Fragment.

– Blaugrunn?

– Yes?

– Please patrol around Arzenmacht. Don’t stick too close.

– Now?

– Yes. I do feel a bit reassured since Arzenmacht is there…

Several thoughts crossed Leeha’s mind.

‘I can’t give them any space. I fight within my range no matter what.’

Going now might not provide much help anyways.

Ultimately, the only way Leeha could become a variable on ‘Kijung’s side’ was by awakening Black Bass through a 30% charge.

‘And attack Pyrot-Cocri before she detects me.’

What kind of power would a 30% charged Black Bass possess?

More importantly, if today, which had just dawned, completely passed, it would mean a whole day in real-time.

‘If we go past midnight, the charge rate will drop.’

In the end, the only way Leeha could help was to wipe out the vampire den, achieve a 30% charge before sunset, and then find a sniping spot to shoot Pyrot-Cocri whatever may come.

Of course, finding a ‘sniping point’ was impossible without knowing where the battle would take place.

In general cases.

Unless you had a ‘mobile sniper platform’ like Leeha.

– Since Blaugrunn is nearby, I can always use Partner: Summon and go there.

– Even if you come, joining the battle isn’t advisable. It might be better to inform the Lord instead?

– Yes, of course, we should do that. I know better than anyone that I can’t do this alone. Ah! And if you find Arzenmacht and battle ensues… absolutely!

Leeha emphasized to Blaugrunn several times.

– Absolutely, absolutely, absolutely! Do not intervene before I arrive. Got it?

– Understood. I’ll head out immediately.

― Okay. I’ll try… to get there as soon as possible.

After sending Blaugrunn to the vicinity of Arzenmacht, Leeha headed towards the vampires’ lair utilizing Jellypong.

For Leeha, who knew where the vampire horde was hiding, it posed no problem.

“Jellypong, a bit faster! Let’s arrive before sunset!”

『Myongmyong!』

There was no time to waste on battles.

More importantly, as he had already ventured deeply into the eastern part of the New Continent, he would need time to reach the ‘Central New Continent’ where teleportation was possible even after clearing out all the vampires.

‘No matter how short… Ugh, damn it.’

Even with maximum utilization of Jellypong, it was still a journey of around 12 hours. Leeha found himself at the doorstep of the vampires’ lair, contemplating.

Was there no way to travel a bit faster?

『Myong! Myo-myong!』

“Already?”

The first stroke of luck was that, thanks to Jellypong’s three-dimensional maneuvering, they arrived at their target by shortly after noon.

Leeha cautiously entered the cave.

There were twenty-nine statues gathered.

“That’s enough.”

Click―!

The only thing left was to deal with them quickly!

Counting the number of vampires he dispatched, how many times did he pull the trigger?

Given that he had kept his item window open, he could tell perfectly.

Just as he destroyed the eighteenth vampire statue and shattered the nineteenth vampire statue.

Black Bass has awakened.

― Ah… Ahhhh…!

Amidst a drowsy and husky voice, Black Bass finally awoke.

According to Middle Earth time, it was just past 2 p.m., just before Kijung’s group encountered Pyrot-Cocri.

Upon concluding his nostalgic reunion(?) with Black Bass, Leeha started moving immediately.

Even if he moved as fast as possible, it would be past midnight by the time he reached the central part of the New Continent for teleportation.

That was Leeha’s second stroke of luck.

“Jellypong, can you throw me?”

『Myong?』

“To the highest place, with all your strength!”

『Myo, myo-myong!』

“It’s alright. It’s alright. We’ve done this once before. Go to the mountain top and throw me.”

『Myong! Myong!』

No matter how fast Jellypong moved, nothing could be faster than teleportation.

Nothing could surpass the speed of instant transportation, which required no travel time.

So, in a place where teleportation didn’t work, how could he move quickly?

“〈Snipe〉, 〈Joint Fixation: Upper〉. Jellypong, are you ready?”

『Myo-ooooooong―』

Jellypong wrapped its tentacles around the trees at the mountain top, then used another tentacle to pull itself with all its might.

It was akin to a ‘giant slingshot’ utilizing Jellypong’s elasticity and the sturdy trees.

“Let’s go!”

『Myoohoooo―!』

Bang──────!

With Jellypong’s roar, Leeha’s body soared into the sky.

No matter how fast a human moved, it couldn’t compare.

As he shot towards the peak, Leeha raised Black Bass. However, he wasn’t aiming at any specific point.

‘Maximum range 7,000m. It will be affected by wind direction― but it’s still faster than walking!’

He instead aimed at a slightly higher angle, taking an arched trajectory as he whispered the skill’s name.

“Nothing’s faster than a bullet. 〈Ghost in the Shell〉.”

He had confirmed that it worked in the eastern New Continent.

A skill that allowed him to move to the ‘bullet’s impact point’ with a single shot.

The Black Bass skill with a 5-hour cooldown was already active, and that one shot saved Leeha more than 10 hours of travel time.

* * *

― So, that’s how I got here. It was just past sunset when I arrived at the central part of the New Continent. Blaugrunn was around Arzenmacht starting from an hour ago. I teleported to him and flew here immediately. It would have been better to arrive a bit earlier, but I didn’t have the chance for contact; I had to shoot as soon as I saw him― tch.

Leeha carefully explained how he managed to get there.

Though he left out the details about the vampire hunt and Black Bass, it was enough to convey that ‘it had been an immense struggle to come all the way from the eastern New Continent to here.’

The problem was that, despite his explanation, everyone just blankly stood around.
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“Hyung, I really don’t understand what you’re saying. I’ve been to the East New Continent several times, but is that really possible?”

“What do you mean by spatial movement? You can move spatially in the New Continent’s east? Ha Leeha-ssi? I’ve tried it several times too! Even using Blink is―”

“No, no, it’s not spatial movement. It’s not teleportation or anything, um… how should I put it?”

The members of the Byolchobang had been in the central part of the New Continent longer than anyone else.

They had always tried to reduce travel time, but over a long period, they had realized that they had no choice but to walk. Hence, they couldn’t understand the situation Leeha explained.

Leeha had mentioned that it was ‘Black Bass’s skill’, but since he hadn’t explained the effect, the surprise was even bigger.

In any case, it wasn’t a situation that needed more explanation.

“What I’m more curious about are the words Pyrot-Cocri said before dying. Black Bass… as far as I know, that’s the name of Ha Leeha-ssi’s black gun. Is it related to why Pyrot-Cocri looked like she was in a state of confusion?”

Pei Wu interrupted Lark’s question.

“What’s so important about that? The important thing is that Ha Leeha didn’t worry about his time or life and ran here for his younger sibling―”

“Right.”

Adding to that was a comment from Ram Hwajung.

Rubini tried to ask something but missed the timing and stuttered.

Raphaela burst out laughing at the scene.

“Whatever—good things are good things! Although being far more terrifying as a sniper isn’t a pleasant development from Minis’ perspective. By the way, Pyrot-Cocri… really died, right? I thought Ha Leeha-ssi killed her, but our quest is marked as complete….”

“Yes, that’s right. That’s what I’ve been curious about and wanted to ask!”

Thanks to Raphaela, Leeha escaped the barrage of chaotic questions and felt thankful to her like she was a savior.

What puzzled Leeha most was exactly that.

He had severed her cervical spine, and her head and torso were separated.

Even in the decapitated state, Pyrot-Cocri hadn’t completely died.


“Actually, it was my hyung who killed her.”

Kijung mentioned what left him astonished.

“Even then, our quest was marked as completed. I was sure the quest completion condition was for ‘our party to land the final blow.'”

“That’s likely true.”

Hyein seriously agreed with Kijung’s words.

Leeha, with a greatly twisted expression, continued.

“That being the case, it’s certainly… strange. How was the achievement for slaying Pyrot-Cocri granted to me as well? It’s a good thing, but it feels rather unsettling.”

Leeha was not a member of Kijung’s party.

Which meant he should not count as someone who could receive recognition for the ‘final blow.’ Nevertheless, both Kijung and Leeha received the same achievement.

“They don’t just give out S-grade achievements carelessly. Moreover, the title of the achievement is the same. Then we should assume they are interconnected somehow….”

“Uh, the strangest thing is that Leeha hyung and I appeared in the Hall of Fame, but none of the others did.”

Raphaela and Kijung tilted their heads in confusion.

How could this happen when the quest wasn’t even shared?

It was Hyein who quietly spoke up.

“I suspect it’s related to Pyrot-Cocri’s abilities.”

“What do you mean, hyung?”

“Uhm―this is just a hypothesis. But Kay, you saw that Pyrot-Cocri could freely increase the number of her clones, right? If when she was about to die, the separation of ‘head and body’ was acknowledged as individual clones, what then? If so, it would be recognized as two Pyrot-Cocri, and the ‘vanquishing a clone’ quest condition would be fulfilled, no?”

“Ah, I see! That makes sense! Come to think of it, when Lark-ssi’s skill hit her! At that time, Pyrot―wait a moment. Lark-ssi?”

Hyein’s hypothesis was accurate.

Kijung clapped his hands together in awe, then suddenly had a realization.


“Huh… huh?”

Due to Lark’s Red―Sun skill, Pyrot-Cocri was divided into three entities, and one of those entities had turned to ash under the skill’s effect.

If the separation into head and body was acknowledged individually for Leeha and Kijung’s party, the person who first attained the achievement for defeating Pyrot-Cocri was?

“Leeha hyung, what place did you say you were in the Hall of Fame?”

“Second. What about you?”

“I’m third. Then….”

The one who defeated the clone entity with the “Red-Sun” was Lark.

If Leeha was the second to be listed in the Hall of Fame and Kijung the third, who was the first?

“Kijung, did Lark know this all along and kept quiet about it?”

Kijung glared at Lark.

Lark, who was looking at Kijung, couldn’t even turn his head away. His eyeballs slid to the side.

“N-no, how could you say such things? I wasn’t keeping quiet on purpose! I thought, ‘maybe’, but saying it carelessly might cause unnecessary confusion, so I kept silent—”

“Just ignore him, Kijung. That guy surely knew everything. He’s always loud and noisy about everything, but keeps the good information to himself. Seeing him act like that makes you lose affection for him.”

“Oh, no, Ha Leeha! That’s too harsh!”

Lark jumped up and down, but his already reddened face betrayed everything.

〈Achievement: Children of Pyrot-Cocri (S)〉

Congratulations!

You have successfully defeated a clone of Pyrot-Cocri, imbued with more than 1% of her power! She, still unable to awaken, plans to tour Middle Earth by using her clones. Even if it is only 1% of her power, if she reveals her strength overtly, all necromancers and warlocks would come to worship her. You, who made efforts to pre-emptively remove such a threat! Your next opponent might hold 5%, 10%, or even over 50% of her power. In preparation, we give you a small gift with hopes you will grow even a little more before that time.

Reward: 25 stat points

Additional damage +10% to undead targets


You are the second registrant of the 〈Children of Pyrot-Cocri〉 achievement. Up to the third registrant will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, gaining an additional 200% effect on the existing benefits.

Effect: 50 stat points

Additional damage +20% to undead targets

“For defeating Pyrot-Cocri, the achievement’s impact doesn’t seem that strong…”

“From the nuance, it seems we dealt with less than 5% of her power. If Lark and Ha Leeha had killed the intact ‘combined’ clone, it might have been over 5%. Maybe 12-13%. Split into three parts, it might have been around 3-4% each?”

Hyein also checked the achievement, showing a slightly disappointed expression, and Raphaela agreed.

Hearing her words, the one who was flustered was not Leeha but Rubini.

“R-Raphaela! You are so greedy! Without Ha Leeha, we wouldn’t have even cleared the quest and would have died!”

“I know, unni! I was just joking. I said it just because it was a bit disappointing.”

Seeing Rubini eyeing Leeha, rafael giggled. In reality, Leeha couldn’t focus much on their conversation.

Like Hyein, he also felt the achievement was somewhat lacking compared to the power Pyrot-Cocri had shown and was simultaneously sensing her threat.

‘What percentage was it before splitting? There seem to be achievements for 5%, 10%, and over 50%—what kind of difficulty and rewards would come from those if 1% is already S-rank?’

As speculated by Lark and Hyein, it seemed certain Pyrot-Cocri could distribute and operate her power.

Just like different Fragments of the Demon King’s fragment, Pyrot-Cocri seemed to be a completely different type of foe compared to Bluebeard and Ghibrid.

‘Bluebeard had his closest lieutenants, Bathory and Toon. Ghibrid’s details are not yet revealed. Maybe Pyrot-Cocri doesn’t even need such subordinates.’

Because she could split herself.

A capable entity that could appear simultaneously everywhere and handle all affairs at once.

Leeha trembled, thinking of her, resting inside the crystal ball.

—The Demon King’s fragment is always good to consume, always. Is there more, contractor?—

“Shh.”

—I will suck you dry to your marrow. Pyrot-…Cocri.—

At the moment Pyrot-Cocri was mentioned, a direct resonance echoed inside Leeha’s head.

“Huh? Leeha hyung?”

“What? Oh, nothing.”

Leeha had heard about the ‘abnormal behavior’ Pyrot-Cocri exhibited.

The tone indicating she panicked because she couldn’t recover from the wounds. He fully understood the cause of this.

Even if it was really a good thing, he would still be uncertain.

〈The Awakened Legend: Black Bass (1st enhancement—Magma)〉

(Non-tradable)

Additional Description—2: The consciousness sealed within the legendary weapon has awakened. —I can now see what I need to consume. No opponent will escape from me. Contractor, I will devour all your desired foes. So, feed me. Awaken my true eyes. Offer me the blood of new, fresh enemies I have never tasted before.

— Upon awakening Black Bass’s consciousness, you can use part of its original strength based on the conditions met.

Additional Effect—3: Awakens at a 30% charge rate

Charge rate less than 10% before sleeping

Additional effect―4: Direct strike on the essence of the target

(ignores all means of avoiding damage such as clones, spirits, life transfer, etc.)

“A direct strike on the essence…”

Seeing this additional effect that emerged when the charge rate exceeded 30%, Leeha couldn’t help but feel puzzled.

That puzzling thought—the second item in the additional explanation—finally revealed its meaning.

Now, as long as Black Bass was awake, no enemy could afford to be complacent in front of Leeha.

“But― the problem is that the enemy might not have an essence in the first place? Pyrot-Cocri is still sealed, isn’t she?”

Black Bass had devoured Pyrot-Cocri’s clone to the point where it couldn’t even restore itself.

Then, what about her true body inside the crystal ball?

If a direct strike was made on the essence, did it also mean a strike on the true body?

“She… hasn’t awakened, right?”

Gulp.

Leeha was actually relieved that only one achievement had surfaced.

Awakening the sealed Demon King’s Fragment meant striking the crystal ball.

“Then the strike on Pyrot-Cocri’s ‘true body’ inside the crystal ball must mean something slightly different… right?”

Leeha desperately tried to mentally reassure himself.

What snapped him out of it was Lark’s shamelessness.

“It’s a clone, but there are looted items… How should we divide them?”

Lark asked and answered himself.

“Hm, well. While everyone’s efforts are commendable, it seems reasonable for the Hall of Fame achievers to take the spoils—don’t you think?”

Leeha finally snapped out of it and shouted.

“Where do you think you’re going with that nonsense!”

“What’s nonsense about it, Ha Leeha?”

Though everyone else stayed silent, Leeha wasn’t going to let it slide.

“It’s nonsense. For starters, I have a lot of questions. Let’s set aside the other issues and address one. Lark, how did you even know about this quest?”

“Well, um… you see…”

Lark, sweating profusely, had nothing to gain.

Instead, Leeha and Kijung decided to distribute the shares to Rubini, who had silently assisted the party from behind. Pyrot-Cocri’s clones had all been defeated.

Achievements were obtained, and spoils were secured. People like Kijung and others would receive more rewards from the Papacy of Ezwene.

Leeha wasn’t without compensation either. Black Bass had awakened, and he had many conversations on his way to assist Kijung.

So far, everything had ended pleasantly. Through this event, only three individuals throughout Middle Earth weren’t pleased.

“Buhihihit! Directoooooor!”

Petyr, who had let the undead escape—Quidam. Despite engaging in a fierce battle with Quidam, he ultimately failed to kill him.

“To kill the undead, you need holy power, huh? Buhihit! That’s the real quest then.”

Although it would have been regretful to be so close to achieving his second job change, Petyr remained calm instead.

“Phuhuhuhu, director… director… I.”

The laughter suddenly disappeared from his face as he murmured alone. His divine power also vanished simultaneously.

And then there was Lee Jiwon, who died.

At least among the users, the events related to Pyrot-Cocri were considered both the worst and the best incidents.
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One of the others was underground in the northernmost part of the Shazrashian in the Cold Wind Mountain Range.

『How dare they… mere toys…』

If Petyr and Lee Jiwon represented the users, then the NPC representative was Pyrot-Cocri from the Peklo City.

『Arghh—Damn it, damn it, damn it! What the hell is this Black Bass or something!』

She wanted to squirm, but she couldn’t move inside the crystal ball.

After struggling for a while, a sudden smile appeared on her face.

『Kikihi, yes. The situation is… I’m the one making it. You’re all~ my marionettes.』

Pyrot-Cocri closed her eyes as she wriggled.

* * *

“Gkh, Gkh… Puhahak! I knew it… Of course.”

Igor, Sasuke, and Pyro turned to look at the NPC who suddenly burst into laughter.

“Wh-what is the matter?”

“I was feeling itchy for some reason. I wondered what this itching, itching feeling was.”

Bluebeard revealed a fierce smile.

Then he turned his body away from the dungeon they were about to enter and faced outside.

“Where are you going?”

“Pyrot-Cocri isn’t supposed to be in this kind of place. Damn little brat. If you were already awake, you should have given a heads-up instead of making us suffer for nothing.”

Bluebeard lightly grumbled as if spitting out his words.

Igor and Pyro, as well as Sasuke, were all startled by his confident tone.

“Pyrot—Did you just say Pyrot-Cocri?”


“Yes. I found out where she is.”

“H-how did you suddenly figure that out… we’ve been wandering in the New Continent all this time because of that―”

“That? Did you just call her that?”

Bluebeard slowly turned his head to look at Sasuke.

Sasuke immediately bowed his head.

“No, I’m sorry.”

To Bluebeard, Sasuke was even lower than Igor or Pyro.

His expression clearly showed that he couldn’t tolerate such a lowly being belittling a Demon King’s Fragment, who was of the same kind as him.

“Igor, Pyro.”

Bluebeard smiled at Sasuke and then called Igor and Pyro.

“You two need to come with me. Bring this guy along.”

‘This guy’ obviously referred to Sasuke, whom Bluebeard pointed at with his chin.

“Understood.”

“What?”

Pyro nodded his head tightly, while Igor stretched his neck as if to loosen it and showed a reluctant expression.

“Where do we need to go? We already have a hard time moving around during the day due to restrictions.”

“To the continent across the sea. Underground in the Cold Wind Mountain Range… You call it Shazrashian. Head to the northernmost part of that country.”

Since Bluebeard had finished speaking, Igor couldn’t refuse. When he ended his words, it was Sasuke who was the most surprised.

“Shazrashian! Pyrot-Cocri is in the northernmost part of Shazrashian?”

“What’s with that ‘I knew it’ tone?”


“No, I didn’t know. It’s just that recently we’ve been able to access that area—”

“Recently?”

“Yes, it was previously locked—no, it was an area we couldn’t pass through. But recently… the person who enabled access to that area—”

Sasuke turned pale.

He wasn’t as capable as Chiyou, but he was still one of the closest aides in a user-created intelligence guild.

He wasn’t entirely oblivious.

‘Damn it…’

One step ahead again.

If he delivered this to Chiyou, what kind of scolding would he receive?

There was no way the person who opened the northernmost part of the Shazrashian didn’t know about Pyrot-Cocri.

“—It was Ha Leeha.”

Sasuke’s comment, which assumed Pyrot-Cocri and Leeha’s encounter as a certainty, drew reactions from all the members of the Demon King’s army present.

“What? Ha Leeha? That guy again?”

“Ha Leeha? Alright. I’ll leave immediately.”

“Keheheh! Lead me, you damn lackey of Chiyou!”

Before the admiration in the sticky voice of Bluebeard could fade, Pyro and Igor swiftly surrounded Sasuke. Even Igor, who had initially looked reluctant, now had eyes ablaze.

Bluebeard was not the only one who harbored a grudge against Leeha.

“Ha Leeha… Fine. First, the three of you just scout.”

“Scout…?”

Pyro, who still hadn’t grasped the entirety of Ha Leeha’s involvement, asked.


“If Ha Leeha had discovered Pyrot-Cocri, and if that audacious brat had given me this hint… Ha Leeha wouldn’t be there alone, would he?”

“Kekeke, there would be dragons, right? Wasn’t there also that damned Holy Knight brat?”

It was a well-known fact that made Igor and other Demon King’s army users shudder.

“What would you do if after scouting, there is indeed a dragon, especially something like Bahamut?”

In response to Sasuke’s question, Bluebeard bared his teeth in a grin.

“It’s a bit early to reveal, but I also have a card up my sleeve. A card so interesting that the old man over there would forget Pyrot-Cocri’s name.”

If only they could awaken Pyrot-Cocri completely.

Glancing at Bluebeard’s face, which solely entertained this one thought, Sasuke whispered urgently to Chiyou.

―Oka-san, I have something to report to you. It’s urgent.

* * *

“Alright, everyone, great job! If you want to rest, take a good rest, and if you need to gear up, do that. Let’s meet at the Ezwen Papal Office in 3 Middle Earth days! Make sure not to dissolve the party until then!”

When levels are low, it’s best to claim the reward immediately upon completing a quest.

Whatever items or rewards come out would undoubtedly be better than what one would be using at that level.

However, once a certain level is surpassed, the story changes.

Especially when the rewards of a quest are concealed, like the one received by Kijung and his party, one must be even more cautious.

Particularly in the case of the Papal Office, where there’s a high chance of gaining access to the Pope’s secret treasury.

Considering that?

Kijung, taking into account the optimal timing for rest and adjustment, chose to set the rendezvous for 3 days later. As soon as he finished talking, members like Raphaela, Rubini, and Pei Wu opted to return.

“Hyung, are you staying here?”

“Well, since Bahamut hasn’t arrived yet, I’ll stay until then.”

“Okay, I’m going to get some sleep then.”

Just like Kijung, who was also exhausted, Leeha quickly logged out after a brief farewell.

The ones remaining were Ram Hwajung, Arzenmacht, and Leeha with Blaugrunn.

All individuals with connections to Bahamut.

“… You don’t seem to have any connection though.”

Except for Lark, that is.

“Why wouldn’t I have any? That, uh, Platinum Dragon told me to stay friendly with Ha Leeha. I want to check if that’s still valid.”

“I’ll ask, so just go.”

“Oh come on~ Ha Leeha—”

“Ugh, so annoying…”

Lark was sticking to Ha Leeha with attempts at charm, while Ram Hwajung watched the scene with a displeased expression.

“You’ve arrived.”

“The Lord approaches.”

Before they could say anything about sending anyone off, Bahamut finally made an appearance.

Of course, for Leeha, it wasn’t entirely a pleasant encounter.

‘If you were coming, you should have come sooner. But then again, I wouldn’t have earned the achievement had you shown up early…’

Why hadn’t Bahamut appeared earlier?

From Kijung’s party discovering Pyrot-Cocri to the end of the battle, it took roughly around 40 minutes.

Another 30 minutes went by, dealing with the distributions and discussing the ongoing situation.

Thus, an hour and ten minutes had passed without Bahamut showing up. If it weren’t for Leeha and the others appearing, Kijung’s party would have been decimated by now.

“Arzenmacht, Blaugrunn, and my subordinate, Ha Leeha.”

“Yes, my lord.”

“You all have worked hard. Truly, well done.”

It wasn’t just an ordinary death; it would have led to the worst outcome of multiple people, including Arzenmacht, becoming undead.

“We could have worked even harder, though.”

Unlike Arzenmacht and Blaugrunn, who greeted respectfully, Leeha wore a somewhat awkward expression.

“I apologize for being late. But please understand there was a reason why it couldn’t be helped.”

Bahamut seemed to read Leeha’s thoughts and started with an apology. Hearing this, Leeha couldn’t remain sulky any longer.

“It’s been a while, lord Bahamut! I’m sorry to ask this as soon as we greet, but could you tell us the reason, if it’s no trouble?”

Lark, with a positive attitude, quickly raised his hand and asked, seizing the moment.

Ram Hwajung continued to glare at Lark, while Bahamut, with a slightly tired smile, looked at him.

“Hmm, it’s been confirmed that someone entered the ‘Abyssal Maw.’ It appears a human carried the key.”

“What? The Abyssal Maw…?”

Leeha, unaware of Lee Jiwon’s situation, asked in surprise.

“It’s a very bad situation. If the Abyssal Maw is activated, Le might have noticed. No, that guy, desperate to find Pyrot-Cocri, would not miss it.”

Moreover, hadn’t they been told before that the Abyssal Maw wasn’t yet opened through Pyrot-Cocri?

“Does that mean… Pyrot-Cocri has awakened?”

“No, that’s not the case. If it were, Lumi, and of course I, would have already noticed.”

Bahamut shook his head in response to Leeha’s words.

The reason Blaugrunn began to move directly, differed from what Leeha’s party speculated, but it all led to one conclusion.

“It means Le’s loyal subordinates are likely to come here, to awaken Pyrot-Cocri. Maybe… Le himself might appear.”

“Then it’s a big problem! If Le comes here—”

“Haha, didn’t I mention there was a reason for everything? I sealed the ‘Abyssal Maw’ in the central continent. Even if they have the key, they can’t use it immediately unless Pyrot-Cocri awakens. The worst-case scenario would be Le using the key to appear directly before Pyrot-Cocri.”

“Ah…!”

Bahamut wasn’t just idling around.

Ram Hwajung feigned disinterest, but Lark was doing his best to piece the conversation together.

“You mean, uh, that Bluebeard and vampires, likely including Chiyou, Igor, Faust, and Pyro among others, will come here to awaken Pyrot-Cocri? And if she awakens, the Abyssal Maw will be used as some kind of portal?”

Although Leeha found Lark’s intuition impressive, given the circumstances, it was something he would eventually learn.

Bahamut nodded towards Lark.

Leeha hastily asked Bahamut.

“So, does that mean it’s fine now? Since we know Bluebeard is coming— Lord, you’ll stay here, right?”

“Of course. Although we failed to stop the part that already emerged, we can’t let Le act freely anymore.”

“That’s great—”

“But the issue is.”

Bahamut still wore a kind smile, but it lacked his usual playfulness.

This very fact made Leeha anxious.

“Well, there’s no need to discuss it ahead of time. Just take it as an old man’s grumble. You need to grow more. Much more than now.”

“Yes. I already plan to—”

“Grow faster…”

Leeha firmly believed Bahamut was speaking to him.

Yet Bahamut, passing Leeha, stopped in front of Lark.

“Huh, what? Me?”

And he even put his hand on Lark’s shoulder while speaking?

Even Lark, the concerned party, couldn’t understand Bahamut’s demeanor, leaving Leeha utterly baffled as well.

Arzenmacht and Blaugrunn also wore surprised expressions.

Bahamut stared at Lark intently before turning away.

“Arzenmacht. Blaugrunn. From now on, strictly guard the vicinity of Peklo City. All our clan’s eyes must be on this location. Ensure multiple layers of alarm skills are set, at least five-fold.”

“Yes, my lord. I will prepare immediately.”

“I will too.”

While Blaugrunn hesitated briefly, Arzenmacht responded promptly.

Following this, Ram Hwajung clung closely to Arzenmacht.

“Yes, yes. Human child favored by Arzenmacht, will you assist our clan?”

“Yes.”

“Arzenmacht, take this child and go to my lair.”

Bahamut gave instructions with a satisfied expression.

Immediately, Arzenmacht and Leeha realized the underlying meaning.
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“What!?”

“Do you mean―”

“If we become partners, won’t we have a much closer bond?”

At that moment, another duo, following in the footsteps of Alexander and Bailephus, Ha Leeha and Blaugrunn, was born.

Leeha felt joy, anticipating that Ram Hwajung’s strength would multiply several times over. Yet, at the same time, he couldn’t entirely suppress his unease.

‘He doesn’t show such an attitude to just anyone or at random. Moreover, the words about Lark and the phrase… 〈all eyes of the clan〉 needing to be directed towards Peklo City…’

It was not a good omen. Leeha clearly sensed this one thing.

‘DEFCON? We’ve already surpassed level 3. At the very least… it’s 〈Fast Pace〉.’

DEFCON 2, Fast Pace.

This indicated the signs of war and the acceleration of war preparations.

Leeha could vaguely sense that events were unfolding within Middle Earth that were causing the leader of the Metal Dragons, Bahamut, to be on edge.

* * *

Following Blaugrunn to Bahamut, the corpses of even Pyrot-Cocri had disappeared, leaving only Leeha and Lark behind.

Lark still had a blank expression, mulling over Bahamut’s words.

“That sword… What is it?”

Leeha asked, pointing precisely at his sword.

“Huh, what? What do you mean?”

“Don’t pretend to be flustered. You’ve got a sense of what Bahamut was talking about, right? Let’s share.”

“What sense? I’ll tell you when I remember more―”

“Lark-ssi.”


Leeha leaned on the Black Bass as if it were a staff.

A faint light emanated from the bolt, but Lark was too flustered to notice.

“Ahem! Why are you setting the mood like that? We aren’t going to fight anymore, are we?”

Lark shrugged his shoulders, protesting his innocence.

Of course, Leeha didn’t care in the least.

“The issue is what benefit does it bring to each other. While I acknowledge that Nara trusts and follows you and you help occasionally, it is still true that you’re suspicious. If you don’t explain how you appeared here today and what you’re hiding, I can’t continue with you. It’s just too difficult to believe.”

The strange power struggle between Leeha and Lark had continued from that day in the New Continent until now.

Their inconsistent way of mixing formal and informal speech, their suspicion and rivalry—to the point of deliberately limiting each other—defined their contradictory relationship.

They could be seen as friends, but they could not be considered just friends. The term “contradictory relationship” fit them best.

Lark sighed inwardly.

‘Hoo~ Right, as expected.’

He seemed as though he always knew this day would come. Comparing and analyzing themselves objectively and coolly wasn’t a problem for Lark.

‘Even in terms of insight, it’s the same. He has times when he’s sharper than anyone else. But his one weakness is…’

Unlike Leeha, who shared his information openly, Lark was the type to conceal as much as possible. This was the biggest difference Lark felt when comparing himself to Leeha.

Thus, a clash was inevitable.

Since Lark held ‘relative informational supremacy’ over what he hadn’t yet revealed to Leeha, he held an advantage.

But he couldn’t hide it any longer. At least this time, Lark felt the need for complete cooperation.

“Hoou… I thought Nara would pry information about me from you. Even you’re still far from it, far from it.”

“What! Nara?”

Leeha felt ridiculous.


Had they grown that close to use such expressions?

“About the naming, Nara and I have already settled it, so don’t point it out… Alright, as you asked about the sword just now, I’ve got a lot of questions too.”

Seeing Leeha’s expression, Lark quickly took the initiative.

Leeha wanted to ask, ‘What did you settle with Nara’, but given how assertive Lark was, he couldn’t pry further. Thus, he had to shift the topic.

“So! Where did you get that sword, and what are you aiming for? You need to tell me clearly―”

“Second profession, 〈Dragon Slayer〉.”

“Wait, what?”

Leeha felt as if he had been struck hard. It was something he hadn’t quite expected.

However, Lark took out his card.

Truth.

When Lark unsheathed his sword, he neither used a skill nor performed a specific act. Nevertheless, every time he lightly waved his sword in the air, a rainbow-colored afterimage followed.

“To be honest, I tried to stab Bahamut with this sword.”

“What— Crazy—”

Leeha thought it was truly fortunate that Blaugrunn moved to follow Bahamut. After Lark’s outrageous statement, which left no room for a rebuttal, he quickly continued to speak.

“The dragon I have to kill wouldn’t be ordinary, so the only ‘special dragon’ left would be the entity called Bahamut.”

“… Is that the second profession quest? To kill a special dragon?”

“Heh, to be precise, that’s my interpretation.”

Lark smiled bitterly. He looked as if he couldn’t believe it himself. Leeha, after realizing that the quest wasn’t about killing Bahamut, had a chance to ask him.

“So, what is it then? You might not have known about Pyrot-Cocri, but considering you understood Kijung’s movements to get here—you could have deduced the quest’s conditions from its description or content.”

“Ha Leeha-ssi. Can you piece together the story of how I got here? If you can, I’ll tell you.”


Lark suddenly posed a problem to Leeha.

Despite his initial confusion, Leeha’s mind was already working to solve it. Having heard everything from the party formation to the start of the battle from Kijung, Leeha was more than capable of deducing the answer.

There was only one person in the flow to capture Pyrot-Cocri whose puzzle piece didn’t fit.

“… Pei Wu.”

“Oh? Pei Wu? Why Pei Wu?”

“No matter how I think about it, Pei Wu’s appearance doesn’t add up. He said he came here without even knowing what he would do. He’s not one to just follow ‘ordinary’ rumors. So, there must have been some credible information source.”

“Hmm, you might be right. But I don’t have anything like an Intelligence guild.”

“But you do have someone akin to an Intelligence guild. If you utilize someone like Cheka, you could spread information through high-level connections in Minis to high-level connections in Fibiel. The Hwangryong Guild, which is connected to those high-level officials in Fibiel, could easily obtain such significant information. In such a major case, Pei Wu would have to intervene directly… Consequently, you only needed to follow Pei Wu.”

“It’s called ‘Clinging Yellow’. It tells you the exact location of a specific target, far superior to any searcher or hunter class skill.”

“What?”

“It means you’re correct. Ha, dammit. I hoped you wouldn’t get it, but at the same time, I thought, ‘This much should be expected from Ha Leeha-ssi.'”

Lark responded with a mix of satisfaction and regret to Leeha’s perfect deduction.

Although Leeha hadn’t realized that “Clinging Yellow” was a skill name, Lark had revealed the method by which he tracked Pei Wu there.

In any case, Leeha solved Pei Wu’s “problem” and now it was time for him to receive his reward.

“Then tell me, what’s the second profession, Dragon Slayer, quest about?”

“It’s just two lines. Ahem, so—”

Lark cleared his throat.

Even before he spoke, Leeha felt a premonition.

Of course, this was based on Bahamut’s words.

Why did the leader of the Platinum Dragons issue a combat readiness alert akin to DEFCON 2 to all Metal Dragons?

Moreover, why was Lark’s second profession called ‘Dragon Slayer’?

‘If that’s the case—’

What would Lark say next?

What would the second profession quest be?

Lark began reading his quest description with quiet yet distinct pronunciation.

“I am a sword made to kill her.”

“Only I can destroy her.”

“And… the quest clear condition is, ‘Kill the dragon’. If you think of ‘her’ as just an abstract term, it would be some special dragon different from ordinary dragons, which made me think of Bahamut—”

“Oh, oh! Yes, you’re right, crazy! That’s it!”

“What? Suddenly what—”

“That was it, that was why! So—that’s why you’ve been saving it, waiting for the right moment?”

“Wait a minute! What are you talking about, Ha Leeha-ssi? If you’re going to tell me, then—”

“Damn it, Le—!”

Leeha realized.

There was a reason Bahamut had told him to get close to Lark.

‘If what Bahamut said is true, no, considering the nature of the game called Middle Earth… it’s about to begin.’

Leeha felt goosebumps all over his body.

Lark initially thought that the term ‘she’ referred to something abstract, but it wasn’t the case.

The Queen of all chromatic dragons.

A dragon that stood opposite to Bahamut.

The very existence that the Ancient red dragon Kuzgunak’sh had tried to awaken at the cost of her life.

Hexadragon Tiamat.

Finally, ‘she’ was about to awaken, the worst dragon in the history of Middle Earth.

Leeha snapped back to his senses and began rummaging through his bag.

“What, what are you doing? You haven’t properly explained anything….”

Lark, seeing Leeha pull something out of his bag, looked confused. However, Leeha couldn’t just send Lark back now.

‘The phrase 〈”Only I can eliminate it.〉.’

Also, Lark’s sword that had been created for a specific purpose!

“Lark, what do you like to eat?”

“Huh?”

“Believe it or not, I am the apprentice of Giyomi, no, Giyomi-Fgar, the head chef of the Holy Grill Candle Castle branch. This might be a long story… let’s have a drink. I’ll make some snacks.”

Leeha needed to gather enough information about Lark’s sword.

“A pub, all of a sudden?”

With a puzzled look, Lark watched as Leeha smiled and began to prepare meat.

* * *

‘Before things escalate, I have to deal with the Kaztor issue. If we can bring Brown, elizabeth, and Kyle to our side, Tiamat won’t be a big problem.’

Leeha was moving from the central part of the New Continent towards the East.

Every time Jellypong’s three-dimensional maneuvering unfolded quickly, Black Bass voiced its admiration.

―Ahaa… refreshing. Going back to catch those who shared blood with me. Their blood was special. Though the same entity, they held different blood… it was very delicious.―

“Blood? Vampires? No. This time, it’s not about catching vampires.”

―Is that so. What a pity. Even Pyrot-Cocri would do. The blood of the Demon King’s Fragments is always enthralling to drink. Always fresh. The best.―

Leeha shuddered momentarily at the sound of Black Bass smacking its lips.

The voice sounded like an aged voice actor, but the words were nothing short of what an adolescent in a phase would say.

‘Still, it’s a relief that it can talk. Despite it being past midnight.’

It was time for the charge rate to decrease. Naturally, Leeha thought Black Bass would go back to sleep.

But that was underestimating the Demon King’s Fragments too much.

〈Awakened Legend Black Bass (First Enhancement―Lava)

(Non-Tradable)

Additional Explanation―2: The consciousness sealed within the legendary rifle has awakened.

―I can now see what I need to eat. No enemy can avoid me now. Engraver, I will devour all the enemies you desire. Feed me. Awaken my eyes. Offer me the blood of new, fresh enemies that I have never tasted.

― Upon awakening Black Bass’s consciousness, some of its original power will be available if conditions are met.

Additional Effect―3: Awakes when charge rate is above 30%.

Sleeps when charge rate is below 10%.

Additional Effect―4: Direct damage to the essence of the target

(Ignores all damage evasion methods such as duplicates, spirits, or life transfer)

Charge Rate: 33.41%

‘It was at 33.41% when I last dealt with the vampires in the New Continent. And then right after, Pyrot-Cocri…’

Leeha had killed one of Pyrot-Cocri’s clones.

When he hoped he could recharge a few percent, the charge rate didn’t change at all.

“Hey, so it is correct that a drop of 10% is correct, right?”

―That is correct. No one knows better how much of my power I’ve lost than me.―

“Ah, got it. Okay.”

And as it passed midnight, the charge rate decreased by 10%.

But what if it was the same as the last checked charge rate?

‘It means just one individual of Pyrot-Cocri charged up to 10%. That’s really something.’
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Only one was caught by Lark, and one was killed by Kijung, but it was Leeha who suddenly desired the head. Had they arrived a bit earlier and captured all three units of Pyrot-Cocri, 30% of their charge would have been filled.

‘If it felt fresh because I hadn’t killed it before, the place I’m heading to now has plenty of such things. Let’s join up as quickly as possible and kill not only Faust’s Lich Dragons but also the vampire Faust and Chiyou.’

As of the moment just past midnight, there were five days left until the charge rate would start to decrease again. Though Leeha didn’t know how vast the eastern part of the New Continent was or how diverse the monsters there were, he believed that in that amount of time, he could catch up with the preceding expedition team.

‘Above all, Chiyou won’t be able to care about me!’

One of the reasons Leeha could rashly head to the eastern part of the New Continent was because of the conversation he had with Lark in front of Pyrot-Cocri’s corpse.

* * *

“You’re going to the eastern part of the New Continent? There’s already a team that went ahead? Ha, really. Old Ewin didn’t even tell me about that?”

It wasn’t because Ewin didn’t mention it. Lark was angry that he hadn’t even guessed such a thing.

“Indeed, knowing that there’s absolutely nothing in the western New Continent, and even though the Pope kept babbling about Laputa and whatnot, I wondered why we were digging around here. Despite knowing that Ewin wasn’t someone who would do that, I got fooled. This cursed game shows no mercy.”

Listening to Lark’s complaints, Leeha laughed. Maybe because they were building a bit of camaraderie through various conversations, but Leeha felt a slight hint of humanity every time Lark voiced his honest grievances.

“But once I head to the east, Chiyou will probably immediately try to stop me. Bahamut said that Bluebeard likely knew about Pyrot-Cocri waking up. Naturally, Chiyou will know too. And… she’ll use all available resources to finish her mission and come here.”

He had to stop her. If Bluebeard knew about Pyrot-Cocri, then surely Ghibrid would know too, and in the worst case, the Manticore and Chimera Corps might start an invasion of the western New Continent.

If they knew the precise location of Pyrot-Cocri, they would come here straight away to buy time to wake her up.

“You’ll go to the eastern part of the New Continent. Kaztor went there. Chiyou went there with him. Hmm, then it’s just a matter of ensuring Chiyou doesn’t focus on you, Ha Leeha, right?”

“It’s easier said than done. Even tinkering with the forces at the border won’t be enough. You know she’s not someone easy to fool.”

Mobilizing unnecessary units, including the Byulcho, would only make Chiyou more suspicious. At Leeha’s words, Lark showed a sly smile.

“I still don’t get it. Not only you but all Fibiel-affiliated users seem somewhat lost, but you are especially worse. You look like you’re missing part of your soul.”

“What?”

“There’s a good bait to catch Chiyou’s attention.”

“Bait? Who? You?”


“Ha! That would be odd too! So, who’s with Chiyou right now, as you mentioned?”

“Kaztor. The former Fibiel Magic Division Head, rota Jaak.”

“Exactly!”

Lark applauded, signaling that Leeha had got it right.

Leeha, puzzled and unsure what that had to do with anything, saw Lark smile again.

“Don’t be ridiculous! Back during the incident involving the death of the former Pope, there were people involved, right? I also investigated, so I know! There were tons of NPCs in Fibiel with grudges against ‘Rotzak’ from the past!”

“Ah! Ah?!”

Skewer Lepanto. The white-haired Blade Master who handled dozens of daggers. Yenhua, an expert in linkage magic whom Kaztor personally referred to as “The Linker.”

At least three, as far as Leeha knew. Others who regained their memories or bore grudges against Rotzak during the Second Human-Demon War surely existed as well.

“So they, then—”

“I know someone close to Lepanto. He’s still in the western New Continent.”

“Great! Then with them—”

“With them? Ha Leeha, get a grip. Every minute and second right now is crucial! You must leave immediately.”

“What? Then what will you do?”

“I told you. I have connections with Ewin. Convincing that old man with my words will be tough… but I’ll put together a team from the relevant members and send them to the eastern part of the New Continent before dawn tomorrow, causing a big ruckus.”

Lark got up from the rock he was sitting on and drew a map on the ground.

On a roughly drawn map of the New Continent’s central region, he drew a line towards the east, then quickly extended it northward with a “ziiiiik”.

“Heading east, then turning north. Taking a brief detour through parts of the north before returning to the west. Even a simple ‘roundabout’ like that should suffice to catch their attention.”

In reality, they must not be sent to the east.

They couldn’t afford to have Chiyou become wary of those ‘chasing her’.


In essence, they would serve as a ‘decoy’ to buy some time for Ha Leeha as he made his moves in the east.

Lark knew that typically, NPCs possessed superior combat abilities compared to players. Nonetheless, this time he intended to utilize several such NPCs to clear a path for Ha Leeha.

“…… Indeed.”

“There are plenty of Musketeers in Minis, even if they’re not of your caliber. Mix in one who can cause enough noise with gunfire, and Chiyou’s spies would be easily fooled.”

The aim was to make Chiyou perceive that “Ha Leeha has entered the east with NPCs like Lepanto, then headed north.”

This was Lark’s proposal, and Ha Leeha accepted it. As a result, even past midnight, he continued speeding eastward.

“In that case, don’t head directly to the north. I’ll point out several spots for you to pass through.”

“Are you trying to frame me again?”

“Framing? It’s just making the best of a situation.”

Ha Leeha planned to have them pass through the territories of the vampires he had previously wiped out.

If Chiyou hadn’t yet learned about the massacred vampires in those territories?

‘It would entirely erase any evidence of my involvement.’

Chiyou wouldn’t be able to find his traces.

She would likely remember him as some fool who reached the north of Shazrashian and only then belatedly set off towards the east, heading even further northeast.

‘Great. Let’s go. As fast as possible!’

Ha Leeha was confident that Chiyou’s skill to track his location had a cooldown of a whole month.

He was certain she had used it when he was in Gaza City just a while ago.

Thus, there would be no way for Chiyou to be 100% certain of his current location.

Despite her sharp mind, without firm evidence, she would continue to be mired in confusion.

“Ha Leeha… Now that I see it, you do have a bit of a con artist in you, don’t you?”


“Talk about the pot calling the kettle black. Who is the original swindler here?”

A plan, concocted by the swindler from Fibiel and the swindler from Minis, was about to be set in motion.

The fact that they exchanged and trusted each other’s information was because of their ‘previous conversations’.

“Tiamat… I am paying off a bit of my debt for that premium information, okay?”

Lark extended his hand.

He was smiling.

“You’re quite ethical. I thought you’d claim the full debt was paid off.”

“I understand the weight of important information too. I’ll repay the rest in due time.”

“Good. Simply telling me what that sword is has earned my trust.”

Ha Leeha grasped his hand.

Having explained the structure and the queen of the Chromatic Dragon, Ha Leeha had learned everything that Lark knew about his sword.

‘That sword… it might become an Ego Sword. It doesn’t seem like a Divine Sword yet.’

He didn’t articulate his suspicion out loud, but he could at least tell that Lark’s sword had the potential to be something on par with the Black Bass.

“Black! There must be many other Ego Weapons besides you, right?”

—I’ve told you before, it’s impossible to know, contractor… Even if they possess a consciousness, unless their bearer can unlock it, they’ll remain dormant forever.—

“That’s true. That must be the case.”

If there was a Black Bass for firearms, there must be similar weapons for other types as well.

Although Blaugrunn had mentioned Ego Weapons were rare, the difficulty in finding them was compounded by the fact that such weapons had to be awakened or unsealed through the abilities of the ‘user’.

‘What about the Cobalt Blue Python and the Crimson Geckos? Only Black Bass being like this doesn’t quite make sense… especially given the Three Musketeers’ class.’

This was the very question Ha Leeha had asked when Black Bass awoke, and they discussed Ego Weapons.

However, Black Bass only responded by asserting it was the strongest gun, without providing additional information.

That alone had already fueled Ha Leeha’s suspicions.

‘The strongest rifle… There’s a gun imbued with Zamiel, the Gun of Arcane Sniper.’

From Ha Leeha’s perspective, wasn’t that gun, which endured the Arcane Bullet, clearly superior to Black Bass?

Leeha thought to himself that he shouldn’t believe everything Black Bass said.

– And I am Bess.

“B, bess… that name is nice too, but it reminds me of someone I know. Just endure with Black.”

– I don’t feel good about that.

“Hehe, that’s why I’m trying to make you feel better. You said there are two steps left to achieve 100% charge.”

– Hehe… I commend you, contractor, for awakening me faster than anyone in history, but it won’t be easy for even you to fully unleash all my abilities.

Black Bass’s bolt trembled.

Leeha accepted his taunt, wondering if this was what it looked like when a gun laughed.

“Everyone said the same so far.”

– Hmm? What are you talking about?

“You don’t know because you’ve only just woken up… everyone said that to me since I came to Middle Earth.”

– Everyone said that?

SWISH—!

A tentacle of Jellypong sliced through the night sky, stretching out refreshingly.

‘Jellypong, toss me again! We’re going with Ghost in the Shell maneuver.’

『Myong!』

When the tentacles caught a tree like a slingshot, Leeha spoke to Black Bass.

– Yeah, everyone. Whenever I said I would do something, the first thing they all said was, ‘It won’t be easy.’ And I will—

『Myong!』

Jellypong hurled Leeha toward the moon hanging in the sky.

Although the speed made it momentarily impossible to open his eyes, it didn’t matter to Leeha.

His adept actions, honed to perfection, loaded the bullet without any wasted motion, and he successfully aimed at the easternmost tip within his sight.

“—I achieved all the things everyone said wouldn’t be easy.”

– Hehe… As my Contractor, you should have at least that much confidence.

Listening to the familiar conversation with the ‘chuunibyou’ patient of a few days, Leeha smiled faintly.

“That’s what I’m saying! Let’s go quickly. 〈Ghost in the Shell〉!”

─────────────!

The gunshot made Leeha’s ears ring.

A few seconds after the bullet was fired, Leeha’s falling body from the apex suddenly disappeared.

At the impact point, Jellypong was naturally connecting with three-dimensional maneuvering, moving Leeha’s body.

* * *

Fernand lifted his compass toward the direction where the sunlight was pouring and used his skill.

Unlike a typical flat compass needle pointing north, the needle inside his completely spherical compass spun and pointed toward a part of the sky.

“As expected… it’s moving. The direction has changed.”

“Does that mean 〈Laputa〉 is heading south?”

“Indeed. So…”

Responding to Alexander, Fernand looked at Browless, Luger, and Kidd.

Unlike those who had to go east to find Kaztork, Alexander and Fernand had another purpose—to search for 〈Laputa〉. Their expedition’s goal was to hit two targets with one shot, but at this point, they had to choose a direction.

“I oppose splitting the party. I also oppose investigating 〈Laputa〉 first.”

Browless spoke firmly, looking at Alexander and Bailephus.

Alexander wanted Bailephus’s agreement. Kaztork and Arcane Sniper didn’t particularly matter to him.

“If you don’t want to split up, we should head to 〈Laputa〉 first—”

“No… no. We should head east first, my friend.”

However, Bailephus did not agree with Alexander.
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“Kheuk, it seems you’ve finally come to your senses. As expected of an Ancient Dragon, you know your priorities.”

“That’s not it, Luger. It seems you still haven’t heard from Ha Leeha.”

“Hmm? Ha Leeha? What do you mean?”

Fernand asked, seeing the somewhat shocked expression on Bailephus’ face.

Luger hurriedly opened the teleportation window with the Three Musketeers to check Leeha’s location.

“That rascal is already in the Eastern Region? Without even saying a word—”

“That means he too is in a hurry. My friend, we must visit the Eastern Region as soon as possible and then return.”

“… May I ask what’s going on, dragon?”

Bailephus asked urgently, and Browless posed the question to him. There was, of course, only one reason for the Ancient Gold Dragon’s haste.

“Pyrot-Cocri has awakened. No, rather, Le has figured out the location of Peklo City.”

* * *

“What… what do you mean? How did you—”

“It seems that Pyrot-Cocri’s clone, which had come outside, was captured by the Holy Knight of Ezwen.”

“Are you talking about Master Kay?”

“Yes. The Holy Knights, led by Raphaela, organized their team and, with Ha Leeha’s assistance, succeeded in dealing with Pyrot-Cocri’s clone.”

Bailephus obtained all the information through Bahamut, Blaugrunn, and Arjenmatt. In actuality, new data had been added, but the Gold Dragon laid out the story step by step. Listening to his Tale, every user, including Browless, had to show a stunned expression.

“Leeha… ha-ha! Ha-ha-ha!”

“A white ray? What is that? I thought he had no attack skills?”

“That was already ages ago. Haven’t we always known that Ha Leeha’s state changes so drastically within just ten days?”

“Damn it! So, Kidd, are you going to admit it? That Ha Leeha, the accursed fellow, took down Pyrot-Cocri’s clone? And not with an ordinary attack, but by shooting a laser?”


Luger stomped out in anger, but Kidd only shrugged.

When a Gold Dragon mentioned it, it meant everything was already over, so there was no point in arguing. Luger understood this and could only get more frustrated.

“It seems we need to speed up. Until now, we’ve slightly extended our route to avoid Faust and the Lich Dragon’s trail…”

Fernand brought this up to gauge the opinions of the expedition members. Their pace had considerably slowed since listening to Leeha’s advice.

They had to periodically check the location of Laputa, forcing them to stop their march, and they needed to set routes to avoid the Vampire Necromancer and the eight Lich Dragons equivalent to his second job.

“That’s right. Luger, you mentioned that Leeha already entered the New Continent’s Eastern Region?”

“We don’t know when he started, but he seems to have passed the Dark Forest…”

Luger nodded in response to Browless’s question.

Bailephus looked at Luger, his mouth agape.

“What’s this? Even a Golden lizard showing such an expression—”

“Dark… the Dark Forest? Ha Leeha finished hunting Pyrot-Cocri in the Lope Continent just last night! Even if he started immediately, only about 17 hours could have passed—”

“What? W-What did you say?”

W-What? Luger stammered, barely able to pronounce the words, revealing his bewilderment.

But no one mocked him.

Even the ‘Pioneer’ Fernand stared at Bailephus with wide eyes.

“No matter how fast one flies, that’s… It’s not even a teleportation-enabled region! Even if we move the shortest distance, it would take days to reach there…”

Everyone knew this fact.

Perhaps it was fortunate.

Had they known that Leeha started at nearly midnight, effectively meaning he moved about 13 hours — 4 hours less than their estimated 17 — it would have caused even more confusion.

“It would be reasonable to join forces…”


“We can’t afford to be caught up. Find the path faster, human compass!”

“I was going to do that anyway, so stop nagging!”

Under Luger’s scolding, Fernand immediately used the Compass Skill. Bailephus’s eyes also turned sharply focused again.

“Hmph, always an impressive friend. Don’t you agree, partner?”

“Hmm… we can’t let him take the credit for killing Kaztor. I will be the one to deliver justice to him.”

The matter concerning Laputa had to be set aside for now.

Leeha’s exploits were news that could stimulate all the powerful beings across Middle Earth.

“Let’s go, Kidd!”

“Hmm, he’s not even accepting whispers. His concentration must be at its peak.”

“Damn it, he’s probably trying to scare us again. Let’s go, let’s go!”

Luger nudged Kidd’s behind with the barrel of his Cobalt Blue Python, urging him forward.

Kidd, annoyed, flapped his coat as he started to walk.

Following Fernand’s direction, everyone began to run.

* * *

Shin Nara bit her lower lip as she looked at Lark.

Lark, seeing her anxiety, remained silent.

“They say you sent Lepanto, Velaid, and Yenua to the eastern continent this morning, right?”

“Yes, that’s correct.”

“You did all of this without telling me—using Fibiel’s NPCs for the second human-demon war—on top of capturing Pyrot-Cocri on your own…”

Why didn’t you tell me?


That was what Shin Nara wanted to ask, but she couldn’t muster the courage to say it. She knew that if Lark questioned why he should have told her, it would hurt her even more.

“Up until yesterday, you didn’t mention anything!”

“It was because of what happened yesterday. As I said before, we only caught Pyrot-Cocri last night. During the conversation with Ha Leeha, we decided on a mutual plan using Fibiel’s NPCs. I didn’t inform you because I couldn’t predict how things would go.”

While Lark didn’t proactively offer excuses, he answered all her questions calmly.

This nonchalant attitude only fueled Shin Nara’s frustration.

“…Then why isn’t Leeha responding to any messages?”

“I don’t know. He hasn’t replied to any of mine either. Maybe he’s busy?”

His cheeky response and audacious demeanor made Shin Nara even more agitated. Lark knew this well.

Despite knowing her feelings, he couldn’t bring himself to say what he truly wanted to say.

Listening to Leeha troubled Lark, just as listening to Lark troubled Leeha.

What should he do going forward?

‘I knew this wasn’t an ordinary sword…’

The keyword for the second job transition was Dragon Slayer.

Lark had received some tips from Leeha about the requirements and the guidance he could expect.

It was clear that he didn’t have an NPC to act as a mentor.

‘No, to be precise… this sword itself is the mentor.’

It wasn’t a human-shaped NPC.

Just as Leeha was certain that Lark’s sword would transform into an Ego Sword, Lark also had a similar hunch.

Even though he had never seen an Ego Sword, nor heard that Leeha’s Black Bass had become an Ego Weapon, Lark’s logical deduction was sufficient to reach the conclusion.

However, the current sword remained silent and did not respond regardless of how much he called for it.

Leeha’s words and Bahamut’s advice resonated with him. Lark needed to become stronger himself.

The silver lining was that, while there was no one to teach him, he had grasped a way to grow stronger on his own.

The unfortunate part was that although he knew how to achieve it, he lacked the time to execute the plan.

‘Bluebeard holds the key to awakening Tiamat… If there’s a chance for it to happen, Chiyou likely knows about it. This, too, must be kept a secret. I need to disappear as quickly as possible. Today, a day of chaos like this, is the perfect opportunity…’

He couldn’t assemble a large team.

Even if he tried to gather a few elite members, those fitting the ‘elite’ title in Lark’s view were scattered far and wide.

Moreover, he doubted that many would step forward to help even if he asked.

Venturing alone was the worst option.

As Lark lowered his head and gripped his hair in frustration, Shin Nara erupted in anger again.

“So, what is it?! Now you’re too scared to talk? What happened to the ‘Fibiel-Minis Joint Investigation Team’? Weren’t we supposed to share information and collaborate constantly? You’re all talk but don’t follow through when it counts?”

Lark raised his head silently.

He looked at Shin Nara, who was brimming with life even in her rage.

Though startled by his gaze, Shin Nara didn’t stop talking.

“I may not be as perceptive as you, but I’m a top-grade administrator in Fibiel! How dare you… how could you…”

Her voice quivered, on the brink of tears.

Lark smiled as he looked at her.

Perhaps he had been making things too complicated.

He had forgotten that the key sometimes lay right beside the lock—darkness hid under the lamp.

“Nara…”

“What?! What excuse are you making now? I don’t want to hear it anymore! From now on, just―”

“Nara-ssi.”

“―Whether you do well or not, I don’t care―”

“Let’s go together.”

“―What…… huh?”

Who else had been so genuinely angry and worried for him? When had a woman shown him such favor?

Lark smiled a little and said to the flustered Nara.

“It seems I’ll have to leave the New Continent for a while. Let’s go together.”

“Together―where? For what?”

“I’ve always been curious about the names of my skills. 〈Red―Sun〉, 〈Blue Hurricane〉, 〈Embracing Green〉, and 〈Clinging Yellow〉. I thought the skill names came from the colors because it was a rainbow sword, but that’s not it. Somehow… isn’t it common sense that a rainbow consists of red, orange, yellow, green, blue, indigo, and violet?”

“Wha… yes?”

Shin Nara stared at Lark with a blank expression.

What on earth was this man babbling about out of nowhere?

“So, I couldn’t figure it out. There are no 〈Orange Dragons〉, 〈Navy Dragons〉, or 〈Purple Dragons〉. Ah, that’s the very trap of Middle Earth.”

Lark drew his sword and raised it.

Shin Nara quickly scanned the rainbow-like trail following the tip of the sword. The colors were indeed those of a rainbow.

However, it felt as though the range of colors was more diverse than in a typical rainbow or light spectrum.

“Defining a rainbow as seven colors is limited to certain countries and cultures. Oh, I remember now! One time, Bahamut said it, didn’t he? 〈Seven but not seven lights and colors〉. As expected of a Middle Earth-level NPC. If they already know everything, can’t they give proper hints―”

“What are you saying? Right now, what kind of nonsense― I’m tired of these word games―”

CAAANG―!

“Kya!”

Shin Nara was startled but quickly drew her sword and reacted.

However, Lark had not intended to attack Shin Nara.

Instead, he had thrust his sword into the ground.

“Nara-ssi. Let’s go catch them. Just the two of us.”

“Catch what… just the two of us?”

What did he mean by just the two of them?

Shin Nara asked Lark as if spellbound.

If she summed up everything Lark had said so far, there was only one conclusion.

“Red, blue, Green, Yellow… all the Chromatic Dragons.”

Did that mean they needed the experience of exterminating all existing Chromatic Dragons to catch the Queen of the Chromatic Dragons?

‘From there, no assumptions or guesses can reveal anything. There’s only one thing left to do.’

Try everything they could.

From a gentle smile, through an unexpected monologue, to burning eyes.

Shin Nara didn’t stand a chance against Lark’s ever-changing rhetoric.

While Leeha headed to the eastern part of the New Continent.

While Lepanto and the missing warriors from the 2nd Human-Demon War pretended to launch an attack to draw Chiyou’s attention.

While Sasuke’s actions led Chiyou to learn of Pyrot-Cocri’s existence.

And while the Eastern Expedition learned that Pyrot-Cocri’s clone had been slain.

All of this happened in a single day, nearly making Chiyou’s head explode.

In the chaos of that day, when she couldn’t pay attention to anything else, two high-level users affiliated with the Sacred and Virtue Knights disappeared from the New Continent.

Of course, she didn’t notice this fact.

* * *

Around the same time.

Leeha was also entirely focused.

Huuu, huuu, perfect. Jellypong, keep going.

Leeha believed he continued to speak.

To reach the eastern New Continent at the fastest speed and in the shortest time, he could not afford any interference.

Using the most optimal skill, 〈Melding Breath〉, Leeha couldn’t even hear his own voice.
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“Ah… How long do we have to keep going?”

Leeha muttered. He was sure he had moved his lips and exhaled, but no sound could be heard.

“I guess sound is indeed that important.” he thought anew. The continuous silence evoked a strange fear.

“Are Jellypong and Black hearing what I’m saying? I want to hear my own voice too! I’m going crazy from boredom!”

It had already been 40 hours since he used the 〈Melding Breath〉 skill and began to move. By this time, he had caught up to the distance the eastern expedition of the New Continent had covered in a week.

Jellypong, who had been moving non-stop, was tired, and Leeha, who was being carried, was also extremely exhausted. The problem was not just the body but also the mind, which felt like it was about to give out.

He had experienced something similar when he headed toward the ‘Purification Pool’ in the Dragon Palace.

But the solitude he felt now was different from back then, when he could still communicate with his surroundings.

No sound for 40 hours!

The scenes that passed by were not particularly special, and Jellypong’s speed was so fast that there was no time to leisurely observe them.

The surreal feeling of seeing everything around him but hearing nothing.

He could feel the wind hitting his skin, and he could see the bolt of the Black Bass rifle glinting, but Leeha felt entirely alone in this world.

“Well, I guess the silence might be good for thinking… about how to become the true owner of Black Bass.”

Before using 〈Melding Breath〉, and even when Black Bass first awakened and Leeha hurried to where Pyrot-Cocri was, they had already had plenty of conversations.

Black Bass, reluctant to be called ‘Black’, had given relatively detailed information, perhaps because of the possibility that Leeha was the ‘shortest-term’ person to awaken it.

One thing that stood out was the necessary sacrifices to advance to the next stages at 49.99% and 99.99%.

“The calculation of the resonance rate with a denominator of nine means that the seventh quest was divided into three stages. The first was to awaken Black Bass, that is, to achieve a charging rate of over 30%.

“Should I thank Chiyou or Preia? Thanks to them placing vampires in the right places and providing the necessary locations, the practical ‘seventh quest’ was as good as cleared. What remained was achieving a 50% charging rate for the ‘eighth quest’ and the final quest of 100%. However, I was informed in advance that a different method of ‘blood absorption’ was needed at 49.99% and 99.99%.

“Black Bass didn’t give the exact method, saying that even it didn’t know precisely.”

“It will change depending on how you achieved satisfaction up to 49.99%… It needs a freshness and exhilaration different from the methods used until now. This implies that catching vampires to fill 50% won’t work.”


Could it be hunting field bosses or monsters never caught before?

That’s impossible. It won’t be that simple. Black Bass would not want that, and Leeha knew that Middle Earth would not allow it.

While it was regretful not knowing the method immediately, conversely, it also meant that he could continue ‘as is’ until reaching 49.99%.

Leeha saw the bolt of the Black Bass rifle gleam once more.

Even though he couldn’t hear it, he believed it responded to his mumbling.

The tiny joy he could feel on this lonely journey was just this.

Leeha sighed at his predicament and rifled through his bag.

There was something as important to explore as his conversations with Black Bass.

〈Legendary Bones from the City of Shattered Souls〉

Description: Bones produced in Peklo City, overseen by Pyrot-Cocri. Unlike usual undead bones, these massive bones, as long as an adult’s arm, emit a subtle glow. Its use is yet unknown, but animals with keen senses like dogs seem to fix their gaze on the bag containing these bones.

“It’s a legendary item, a legendary item no less. With these massive bones… if I grind just the tip and use it like a spear, no, a bone spear, many spearmen would drool over it—”

“What is the meaning of this item’s description?”

Even though it seemed suitable for grinding, it specifically said ‘its use is yet unknown’ and included a mention that dogs and wolves would target the bones.

Is it suggesting using a legendary item as a dog toy?

The only people who possessed this item were all of Kijung’s party members, Rubini, and Leeha.

It would take another 10 hours or so for them to connect, so Leeha was the only one who could guess its use immediately.

If Leeha had known this would happen, he would have handed one over to Lark. Given his intuition, he would have come up with some method…

What would Lark do now?

Leeha pondered over this for a moment.

He was certain Lark wouldn’t hesitate to use any means necessary to become stronger. But how exactly did he plan to do that? That part was beyond Leeha’s grasp.


After brooding over it for a while, Leeha soon shook his head.

Anyway, for now, what’s important isn’t Lark and Tiamat.

Quickly, faster… but no! He needed to know how far away Luger and Kidd were from his current location to stay motivated!

Opening the Three Musketeers’ teleport window didn’t help at all, as he was seeing the names of places in the eastern part of the New Continent for the first time and had no idea how much distance they had covered.

For now, all he could do was keep going and going and going.

Whenever Leeha grumbled, only Jellypong, who always watched him carefully, cheered him on with enthusiatic 『Myong, myong-o, mew-mew!』 despite no one being around to listen.

* * *

After detecting Leeha’s rapid approach and realizing they needed to pursue Kaztor at an even faster pace, the speed of the expedition in the eastern part of the New Continent was unlike anything they had achieved so far.

“If it’s hard, you can speak up, Luger.”

“Huff, I’m not sure… what you mean, director.”

Most of the members here possessed stats far superior to those of ordinary users. Moreover, they had the achievement 〈One Who Knows the Joy of Running〉, allowing them to run even with their stamina fully depleted.

However, the terrain’s peculiarities, consistent undulations, and new monsters—all factors that increased difficulty—caused even those with high synchronization rates to experience cumulative physical fatigue.

“It feels like we covered more distance in a single day than we did in the past three days combined.”

“That’s true, Kidd. Though Bailephus helped a lot… now that we don’t have to worry about other factors and just focus on navigation, our speed has naturally increased. Oh! Do you want to rest if you’re a bit tired?”

“… There’s no need. Although someone over there might want to rest.”

“Shut up, Ki—Kidd.”

Luger, carrying a Colbalt Blue Python on his shoulders, climbed using both hands.

Alexander also used his spear like a trekking pole to distribute his body weight.

“To ignite the flames of the expedition’s justice, resting wouldn’t be a bad idea.”

Alexander struggled to maintain a dignified voice as he regulated his breathing.


Luger, although too proud to agree, paused momentarily beside Alexander, giving a silent nod.

However, none of those leading the group stopped.

“Damn it… Those agility-type humans.”

Luger finally had to voice his complaint.

With Bailephus, the 『Rapidfires』 of the past and present, and the guide Fernand, most of the group excelled in agility and movement.

They were in far better condition than Luger or Alexander.

“Right! Jen, Zhang! Rather—take—a little—rest—”

“Hm!?”

“Ah!”

Leading guide Fernand and his close follower Bailephus suddenly halted their steps.

“Sh—!”

Fernand clenched his fist and raised his hand high, crouching down immediately.

Everyone knew the STOP signal, and the group crouched low.

“You must have sensed the same thing as me.”

“Yes, if the Dragon himself sensed it, then my detection must be correct.”

“What’s going on?”

Alexander approached cautiously and asked.

Bailephus and Fernand informed the back.

“There are traces of a Lich Dragon.”

“Faust… has likely passed by this area recently.”

“Faust? Is that true? Then what about Kaztor?”

Listening to the urgent voice of Browless, Bailephus shook his head.

“I can’t tell. The power of the Dark Elf isn’t detectable.”

“Same goes for vampires. While many vampire auras are present, it’s impossible to ascertain if any belong to Chiyou or Faust due to their shared nature as vampires.”

Fernand’s tracking skill and Bailephus’ mana detection efficiently complemented each other.

They couldn’t determine when Kaztor and Chiyou had passed through, but it was certain that Faust had been there recently.

And that alone was enough to boost the morale of the group.

“Is there any possibility that it’s nearby?”

“We’d have to look into it more precisely, but it doesn’t seem likely. A few days ago? Maybe…”

Fernand’s confident voice trailed off.

“It might have been yesterday.”

“More importantly… the flow of mana from the dragon is quite turbulent. There might have been a battle.”

Though they couldn’t track the usual flow of mana, Faust had a Lich Dragon.

Not just an ordinary undead, but a dragon that was practically the same as it was during its lifetime.

Bailephus sensed the unique mana that dragons have.

“Are you saying that Faust was in a battle?”

To Luger’s question, Bailephus responded.

“We need to find out from now on. Let’s go, Fernand.”

“Yes, Bailephus-nim.”

Bailephus and Fernand ran swiftly toward that place.

Browless, Alexander, and Kidd also started to follow them, but Kidd quickly stopped and approached Luger.

“That ‘shh’ earlier, were you trying to suggest resting?”

“W-What are you talking about? When did I ever? J-Just like Fernand said, shh! It meant to be quiet!”

“Hmm… So it was my mistake to think that you were admitting you were tired?”

Kidd looked at Luger with eyes that demanded honesty.

As their eyes met, Luger briefly looked away, unable to meet Kidd’s gaze, who had lifted his hat slightly.

“Yeah, you jerk! You’re always looking for a flaw. If you think about it, you’re worse than Ha Leeha!”

“Well, I’ll go ahead.”

“W-Wait! Kidd! Let’s― Damn it!”

Watching Kidd sprint away while he was grumbling, Luger quickly gathered strength in his legs.

By then, the others were already out of sight, having disappeared quickly.

“Huff, huff. So! How! Huff, did you manage?”

It was a few minutes later when Luger eventually found his comrades.

He had circled around a nearby hill, descended it for a long time before finally reuniting with them, but their faces were grim.

“… Luger, this may be fortunate for you.” “What do you mean, huff?”

To Luger’s question, Kidd pulled his hat down lower.

Bailephus mentioned sensing dragon energy and suggested there might have been a battle here.

But the one whose face was most troubled was not Bailephus.

“F-Faust fought. Absolutely. His Lich Dragons fought here. But the problem is, with whom…”

Fernand cautiously glanced at someone.

Luger’s gaze followed and rested upon the same person.

“Director?”

Browless struggled to maintain a composed expression. Faust had fought here, with his Lich Dragons.

Who was he fighting?

“… My friends…”

In his hand was a single spent shell casing.

* * *

“Director! Are you saying that ‘Arcane Sniper’ was here?”

This was not a musket ball. A spent casing would be an item practically impossible to find in the current world of Middle Earth.

Recently, bonobo paleo’s mystical creature, Koba, had produced a limited quantity and supplied it to the 〈Partisan〉, but the distribution was strictly controlled by Ram Hwayeon, making it impossible for any to reach outside.

In other words, aside from the old and current generation of the Three Musketeers, there were barely anyone in Middle Earth who used such ammunition.

Even including NPCs.

“Hmmm, indeed, their guns were not mere muskets.”

“Elizabeth’s—no, Brown’s guns were like that too. They were not simple muskets.”

Luger clamped his mouth shut as he attempted to agree with Kidd by mentioning Elizabeth’s rifle.

The ridiculously long-barreled rifle that Elizabeth used.

The fact that it was a gun that fired magic bullets was known only to Leeha, Kidd, and Luger himself.

There was no need to give other people extra information.
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“Browless-nim, are you certain they were here? Ms. Elizabeth, Mr. Brown, and their child—”

“It should be. Although it’s uncertain since we only found this single shell, all three of them must have been here.”

Fernand asked cautiously, grinding his teeth as he answered.

Elizabeth herself had mentioned that Kyle was in bad condition. And she wasn’t the type to move without her child.

Listening to the responses stored by Browless, Kidd and Luger also had pained expressions.

“Bailephus-nim, can you detect the corpses of the lich dragons or anything similar?”

“No, though the intense flow of mana clearly indicates a battle, I can’t discern anything specific.”

“Isn’t it strange? There are no traces of Kaztor or Chiyou, but Faust and the lich dragons… Is it possible they fought against Elizabeth and Brown?”

Fernand, Bailephus, Alexander, and others who could remain emotionally unaffected felt uneasy about the present situation.

The first group to head towards the eastern part of the new continent was Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle.

The second group to pursue them was Kaztor and Chiyou.

After Chiyou left, a considerable time later, the third group, Faust, and the lich dragons had set off. Their current expedition team was the last group in line.

“Did we miss them while coming here? If Kaztor and Chiyou changed directions—”

“That’s highly unlikely. At least, the Kaztor I faced in Ezwen wouldn’t do something like that.”

Kaztor only ever advanced straight toward the goal; he wouldn’t meander off the main path for any NPC.

With Kidd’s firm voice, Alexander halted his speculation.

Ignoring the second group while the first and third engaged in battle and they, the fourth, found the traces?

Then where did the second group go?

Why would the group most determined and powerful in tracking group one fall behind?

It was indeed a strange situation.


Breaking the confusion of the group, Luger spoke up.

“You’re too fixated on the pattern. Even you, Kidd, got deceived.”

“Hmm? What do you mean, Luger?”

As Kidd tilted his head in confusion, Luger gave him a sly smile.

“When you think of lich dragons, does only Faust come to mind? Don’t forget, Chiyou also has two of them.”

“… Ah!”

“Hmm?!”

“Yes, that’s right! Come to think of it, Chiyou does have two adult lich dragons!”

Fernand clapped his hands, agreeing with Luger’s words.

That indeed made more sense.

Group two, determined to find group one, finally located them. If the two factions fought and used the lich dragons as well!

“Brown and Elizabeth could have been battling Kaztor…”

Browless bit his lip and looked towards the east.

If the battle happened like that, which side would have won?

And what happened to their son, Kyle?

Just as it seemed Browless was about to rush off, Fernand hastily spoke again.

“What about Faust’s eight lich dragons? If Luger’s assumption is correct, where is Faust now?”

If their fourth group had found traces of the fights between the first and second groups, surpassing the third group which Faust belonged to, where was Faust now?

“Behind us…?”

Alexander turned to the direction they had come from.


At his simple action, Luger, Kidd, Fernand, and the others felt chills running down their spines.

“Bailephus-nim, is it possible to track ancient dragons or hide from each other?”

“Of course, it’s possible. But lich dragons shouldn’t be capable of that—unless certain conditions are met.”

“What kind of conditions?”

Fernand asked again, watching Bailephus frown.

“Only if the lich was an ancient dragon of power similar to, or greater than mine before becoming a lich would it be able to hide from me.”

“… So you’re saying it would have to be a dragon stronger than Kuzgunak’sh.”

“… Yes, partner.”

Alexander mentioned Bailephus’ “rival” with a bitter tone.

The topmost dragon that even gave the number one-ranked player a hard time!

If Faust possessed an Ancient red dragon stronger than Kuzgunak’sh, it wouldn’t be easy to deal with.

But how likely was that?

Considering Bailephus knew the lore of the chromatic dragons well, the possibility of Faust keeping such a dragon was slim. Thus, Bailephus quickly voiced a secondary possibility.

“If not, it means the one who turned the ancient dragon into a lich was extraordinarily powerful. If combined with its power, even if the dragon had less knowledge than me, it could surpass my abilities.”

“You mean, when Faust’s power is added.”

“That’s right.”

“So, it’s you after all. Haha, to think someone who chose to play as a mere lizard would end up creating the strongest lizard gang ever.”

Listening to Kidd and Bailephus’s conversation, Luger smirked and mocked Faust.

No one laughed.

“Golden lizard! What about the adults? You said seven out of eight lich dragons are adults!”


“How foolish, Luger. If just one could escape my tracking, it means that one could also obscure the other seven.”

“Damn it… utterly useless lizard.”

“Do not test my patience, Luger. Remember, my benevolence has its limits.”

Bailephus spoke with irritation in his voice, causing Luger to flinch.

Grumbling, he urged Browless.

“Director, what are we going to do? This isn’t the time for sentimentality. If we delay any longer, the lizard swarm will be upon us.”

“… I suppose so. Right now… Right now is not the time to think about friends—”

“Hmm!?”

“Ah!”

Bailephus and Fernand simultaneously lifted their heads.

They turned to look behind them.

Everyone present instinctively understood the meaning of such a simple move.

“No way…”

Kidd swallowed hard and rolled up his coat.

At the same time, he already had his Crimson Geckos in hand.

Though the speed at which he drew his rifle was so fast it was nearly invisible, no one, including Luger, had time to be impressed.

“Everyone, prepare for battle! They are coming! We have detected multiple auras of Lich Dragons!”

───────────────!

From the edge of the foothills they had crossed, a burst of light exploded.

The mass of light, distinguished even in the twilight sky, was flying toward them.

* * *

“Breath! Dodge immediately!”

────────────……!!!!

A golden light erupted from Bailephus’s body.

The dignified ancient dragon, clad in golden armor, had returned.

『〈Absolute Barrier〉!』

At that moment, everyone had already gathered behind Bailephus.

“Starting with breath…?”

Out of necessity, their defensive actions, without any proper mages or healers, primarily consisted of dodging. Thus, to counter a wide-range attack like breath, they had no choice but to rely on Bailephus’s strength.

“Damn, how many? Kidd! Eight, right?”

“You can verify it too, can’t you? Moreover, you should be able to see Faust atop the largest one—… huh?”

“What is it!”

“The scale pattern has changed.”

It was no longer the Lizardia race with white scales of the past.

Having undergone vampirization and turning into leopard spots, Faust was glaring at them with bared fangs.

“Perhaps, could this be a side effect of becoming a vampire?”

In response to Kidd, Fernand added.

Except for Alexander, everyone was skilled at ‘seeing afar’, so confirming it wasn’t difficult.

Various colored breaths poured toward Bailephus, but the absolute shield of the ancient dragon blocked them all.

In the gap created by the paused breath attacks, Alexander rose and lifted his spear.

“Speak of the devil and he shall appear… My friends, it’s time to execute justice.”

『It is only we who can stop the atrocities of the necromancer. Rise, Alexander!』

“I will handle the ancient dragon and Faust. The rest of you, deal with the other dragons.”

Alexander, leaping onto Bailephus’s back, instructed his comrades.

“Wait! I can handle it with『Acht-Acht〉! Let me attack—”

“I’m going. Once I kill Faust and the ancient lich dragon, it will be easier for you all, so trust and wait for me.”

“Damn it!”

Luger voiced his anger at the command-like tone in Alexander’s voice, but the duo of Bailephus and Alexander ignored him and began to take flight.

Only Fernand, Browless, Luger, and Kidd remained.

“If it was Alexander, he could swiftly handle an Ancient…”

“First, we need to show our strength too. Luger! You’re to escort Guide Fernand.”

“Why me? Kidd should—”

“Your movements are too slow and exaggerated! Do you think you can dodge and confront seven Adult Dragons?”

Without even looking at Luger, Browless scolded him.

“Damn it…”

Even Luger knew it well.

In long-range bombardment or in a perfectly defensible state, combat would be fine, but it was impossible to use 〈Acht-Acht〉 at close range.

Now that the dragons had approached closely, he had only one option.

“Follow me, human Compass! I can shoot down those damned lizards without using any skills!”

“Yes, sir! Browless, Kidd, please be careful!”

Though Luger had yelled for him to follow, Fernand had already sped ahead, even after greeting the two preparing for battle.

Kidd chuckled as he stood next to Browless.

“How many can you handle?”

“The strength of a Lich Dragon depends on the Necromancer’s ability and whether it’s within the range controlled by the Necromancer. Do you know that?”

“Of course.”

Kidd was aware, as he had already been briefed by Leeha.

Browless smiled contentedly and then drew his weapon.

“I’ll take on three. Kidd, you handle two.”

“… That leaves us with two more.”

Kidd tilted his head curiously. At that moment, a loud cannon blast echoed from behind them.

BOOM────!

As Kidd flinched in surprise, Browless laughed heartily.

“Did you forget about that guy? He’s not the type to just run away when told.”

Browless would handle three, Kidd two, and Luger two.

It was an unrealistic allocation for seven Lich Adult Dragons, not just regular monsters.

Kidd swallowed nervously and asked, “Are you confident?”

It took at least three raiding parties to deal with even one Adult Dragon.

Each raid party consisted of 25 members, meaning nearly 80 people were needed to capture even a recently matured Adult Dragon. And that was the minimum.

Generally, it was recommended to gather five raiding parties, about 125 people, to raid ‘one Adult Dragon’, making their current division of roles unreasonable.

Of course, Browless knew this information too.

“Think of it as an opportunity, Kidd.”

“Opportunity… you say?”

“If they were Metal or Chromatic Dragons, it would be difficult to handle even two on your own. You’d incur the wrath of their kin. But what about now?”

Lich Dragons were already dead.

Undead Dragons wouldn’t be recognized as members of either the Metal or Color kin.

“There’ll be no better chance to freely hunt dragons. Move as quickly as possible!”

Kidd’s thigh muscles tightened in response to Browless’ half-encouragement.

“Yes, sir!”

Swoosh—!

The two 『Rapidfire』 ran toward the charging Adult Dragons.

Faust rode an Ancient Dragon, accompanied by Alexander, and Bailephus.

The seven Adult Dragons would be handled by Browless, Kidd, and Luger, who acted as support.

Despite the sudden battle in the eastern New Continent, they didn’t falter and divided their forces accordingly.

However, they overlooked one fact.

Faust was not the type to engage in losing battles.

Moreover, Faust wasn’t unaware of the existence of the eastern New Continent expedition, was he?

Would he reveal all his dragons without any strategic calculation?

“After all, hitting them with a Breath attack stops them from thinking. Even if Chiyou is annoying, she’s smart… Tch, don’t you agree, labatt?”

『Mmm…』

Faust mumbled, showcasing a smile of satisfaction mixed with displeasure as he grumbled.

Just recalling the event from two days ago caused his speckled Lizardia body to tremble violently.
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“Chiyoooo! Labatt!”

『Huuuup―!』

───────────────!

The breath of the Ancient red dragon Labatt was unleashed.

Despite a considerable delay in starting, Faust finally managed to catch up with Kaztor and Chiyou, actively using the “flight” of the Lich Dragons.

“Oh my… Faust.”

“Is that ‘the vampire’?”

Although a nearly white flame breath was unleashed, Chiyou and Kaztor laughed nonchalantly.

While Faust’s departure was clearly secret, the exact time of departure had been reported by Sasuke. More importantly, Chiyou, who could hear the information of “Ghibrid” spreading across the eastern parts of the New Continent, had a fairly accurate grasp of Faust’s movements.

“I mentioned it could be today if he was fast, or tomorrow at the latest, right? You said I was useless to the Count, but I’m not that easy to overlook.”

Chiyou appealed to Kaztor, who subtly belittled her, trying to show her worth.

Collecting information through Ghibrid was essential with the cooperation of Bluebeard, which, in itself, almost proved her capability.

“Hmph.”

Of course, Kaztor was not one to acknowledge such things.

The seasoned dark elf, still maintaining the form of Rotzak, waved his hand at the red dragon’s breath.

With a simple light gesture, the incoming breath turned into a flock of sparrows and flew around.

“Goodness… that’s―”

“There are many interesting techniques among the dragons.”

It was an application of what Bahamut once did, converting the black dragon Onyx’s breath to “acacia scent”.

Although Chiyou couldn’t know the details, she could roughly guess there was a dragon-specific skill to counter breath attacks.


“… What? Why did the breath― Damn it, everyone attack! Subdue those damned guys!”

The one most surprised was the originator of the breath.

Faust commanded all his Lich Dragons. The roar of the Lich Dragons spread through the air.

Some monsters nearby, frightened by the dragon roar, tried to flee, but Chiyou and Kaztor, the intended targets of the dragon roar, remained calm.

“You don’t expect me to clean up your mess, do you?”

“Of course not. But… if Kaztor-nim could help just a bit, we might clean it up faster.”

“No chance. If you hold me back when every second counts, I’ll leave first.”

“Hmph, understood. Please wait, then.”

Without Chiyou, Kaztor couldn’t assure safety with just his combat power alone.

Nonetheless, he acted tough, and Chiyou knowingly fell for it.

‘It would have been dangerous at night.’

Chiyou was confident of her victory. It would be inevitable for Faust too, after all.

Having become a vampire, she had never fought another vampire and had never encountered anyone who opposed her as the Vampire Queen.

“Chiyooo! How dare you treat me like a mere pawn―”

“〈In the Name of the Queen〉, stop.”

Can an ordinary vampire defy the Vampire Queen during the day?

Regular vampires can’t move in daylight.

As for NPCs, they have the penalty of turning into statues.

So, what about players?

“―Kh!”


Faust froze in place.

Stunned by the fact that just a single word applied the same effect as 〈Status Effect: Paralysis〉, Faust couldn’t even open his mouth.

―I merely made you stop now. If I use the skill once more, I could kill you right here.

―What is this? How did you do it?

―I am the Queen. You understand, right?

―What does that― does it mean you can do as you please?

―Heh, this must be how Le felt. Even if it’s an NPC, this kind of fun is hard to pass up.

He had enjoyed becoming a vampire.

With the grand second job of “Deathbringer”, he could handle the undead he couldn’t manage before, and the level of the undead he had handled rose to an absurd height.

However, rapid growth inevitably comes with repercussions.

One of those penalties was exactly this.

The deprivation of freedom.

The Demon King’s army, structured like a pyramid, had to completely defer their actions to the “superior ranks” no matter how great a power they obtained. It didn’t matter whether the superior ranks were users or NPCs.

“Could it be that all this time, you’ve been controlled by Bluebeard?”

“Hehe, that’s none of your concern, is it?”

Hearing Chiyou’s laughter, Faust felt a chilling sensation. During the Kuzgunak’shy incident, he had once received a quest from Le and gained power 1:1. However, there wasn’t such a restrictive limitation of actions in the “storyline” that progressed back then. Moreover, since he had been expelled from the Demon King’s army due to death, the penalty at that time was merely the compounded severity of penalties caused by death.

He thought it would be the same for Igor and other users. But now? With the emergence of Toon, Bathory, and other Demon King’s Fragments, and as they delved deeper into the Demon King’s army, it seemed the Middle Earth’s system imposed penalties on users to prevent them from escaping.

“You crazy woman. What do you think you’ll gain by doing this?”

Having grasped the situation, that was all Faust could manage to say. Despite understanding it was fortunate he could still whisper, and even though every physical control could be stripped away by an NPC, he continued to blame Chiyou, who didn’t even blink.

“Shut up. Stop the dragon. I’m giving you two seconds.”


The response was merely a ruthless threat! Faust, frozen in place, watched Chiyou approach. Without his explicit command, the lich dragons would tear the target before them apart. Would that happen first, or would his body explode first? Faust had no choice but to decide.

“Damn it, damn it, damn it!”

Screeeeech…

The flying dragons gradually slowed their flight. Seeing this, Chiyou smiled.

“It’s nice to see you from a distance, Faust.”

Even the superficial respect shown until now was gone. The vampire queen, who had now fully displayed her power, showcased her superiority over a ‘lesser’ user like him. Kaztor approached them.

“You arrived at a perfect time. It might not have been sent by Le, but the timing couldn’t be better.”

“……”

Faust couldn’t utter a word, merely staring at Kaztor. Only then did Chiyou, as if she had just remembered, release his paralysis.

“Ugh, I thought you might have noticed me… But what do you mean by perfect timing?”

“Show proper respect to Kaztor-nim, Faust.”

“……What are you saying?”

At Chiyou’s single remark, Faust’s tone changed. Kaztor glanced briefly at Chiyou before turning his gaze back to Faust. Chiyou, interpreting the look as praise, bowed politely. Satisfied that the hierarchy had been perfectly established, Kaztor began to speak more to Faust.

“Pyrot-Cocri has awakened.”

“Pyrot-Cocri!? If that’s the case—”

“It might be natural for Le to make a move, but the problem lies in the humans’ actions. Chiyou?”

“Yes. The one related to Pyrot-Cocri is Ha Leeha. There was a large-scale massacre of vampires in the eastern part of the New Continent. We should’ve noticed when the incident occurred near the Dark Forest… But this time it was impossible to cover it up. Either Ha Leeha himself or those connected to him will be coming for us. There’s over a 70% chance.”

Chiyou hissed. For her, information with about 70% accuracy was as good as trash. It was natural for her to be angry at herself for having to package such “trash” as information and at the group of people who deceived her.

‘Decoys like Lepanto… That damned guy. But from the moment I noticed those plans, it only proved that Ha Leeha, you bastard, are coming at us.’

The decoy tactics using Lepanto bought them exactly one day. However, during that day, Chiyou, having lost her direction regarding where to concentrate her efforts, failed to allocate Shinobigumi and Yamato’s powers properly. As a result, she could explain the situation only as an uneasy assumption rather than with assured information.

‘This whole thing was a trick from the Dark Forest. Moving deliberately to the Gaza City, wasting time in the western part of the New Continent just to hide Pyrot-Cocri—’

Finally realizing that she’d been deceived by Leeha, Chiyou was already thinking of swift countermeasures, although she couldn’t use her ‘skill’ anymore.

“Therefore… Faust, I hope you stay here and hold them off. I don’t know how many will come, or who, or how great their power is. But it’s certain that Ha Leeha and Alexander will be among them.”

***

She recalled Faust, who was pursuing her.

He was not a user who had good feelings toward him anyway. However, compared to Igor or Pyro, it was clear that he was a much more useful card.

Betrayal could be controlled, but one could not stop ‘words’ from spreading.

If someone deserted, even at the cost of a penalty, there was a likelihood that various information about the Demon King’s army would leak out. Thus, Chiyou was altogether aiming for mutual destruction, like the classic strategy, against the mysterious group that had crossed over with Faust to the Eastern New Continent.

“You are so confident despite saying it’s only at 70% certainty?”

“The decision-making process should be swift if you have more than 70% of the information. I made the proposal; now it’s your turn to decide.”

Chiyou, treating Faust with respect again after belittling him earlier, asked in a composed manner.

Faust pondered for a moment at her knack for giving and taking away control over people.

“What if I agree… what’s the payoff?”

“Payoff? Ahaha! Even in this situation, you’re asking for a payoff—”

“〈Dark Protector〉!”

Kaztor abruptly chanted his skill name. As a dark aura enveloped his body, a loud sound echoed.

Kaaahhhhhhhhhh—!

With the sound of a gunshot, Kaztor’s body crumpled like a puppet and rolled on the ground.

It all happened in an instant.

* * *

“Kaztor-nim!”

“W-what’s this?! 〈Bone Shield〉!”

Quickly creating a bone shield, Faust covered himself and ran toward the horde of Lich Dragons.

Chiyou also ran toward Kaztor, using her 〈Dance of Socialites〉 skill, worried she might get attacked. However, their concerns were only driven by their racing hearts.

Bang, bang!

A series of gunshots resonated along with sharp, piercing sounds cutting through the air. But none of the bullets were aimed at Chiyou and Faust.

“Damn it! Stop running and fight back—”

Kaztor couldn’t even stand up properly.

Although he managed to deflect the damage by creating a shield, he couldn’t ignore the inherent physical energy of the bullets. Each hit caused him to stagger, losing his balance.

“—Chiyou! Over there! Capture those bastards! The fact they launched a counterattack means they couldn’t have entered Saur Land! We must catch them this time!”

“Understood!”

Though Chiyou awkwardly changed direction, she had no clue what or how to pursue.

She recalled the formidable power shown by Brown, Elizabeth, and Arcane Sniper as she came this far.

‘Damn, avoiding just Ha Leeha’s bullets with the Dance of Sociability was tough. To evade three…’

Three who could easily be considered beyond Ha Leeha’s level.

Chiyou’s half-hearted pursuit was understandable.

As Kaztor continued to layer shield-type skills for protection, and Chiyou initiated a half-hearted pursuit, Faust thought.

‘Saur Land? What’s that?’

The single word, overheard, was too vital to ignore.

Although not as perceptive as Chiyou, Faust was not a clueless user. Who were Kaztor and Chiyou chasing?

Given their intent to reach somewhere, the overheard word provided an essential clue.

‘Saur… like dinosaurs? Is there a land of dinosaurs? Why? I’ve heard something about Arcane Sniper, but what does that have to do with dinosaurs—no, toawn?’

Toawn was a remarkably unique entity for a monster.

‘Could it be related to that?’

The rapid barrage of bullets suddenly ceased, and Chiyou returned, having failed her half-hearted chase a few minutes later.

“I’m sorry. Their movements were simply too fast for me to pursue…”

“Ugh, is it because it’s not night yet? You’re useless as a vampire. Fine. But the fact that they showed themselves indicates urgency. We have to chase them right now!”

Kaztor’s uncharacteristic urgency left Chiyou bewildered.

Watching them, Faust stepped forward.

“I… will hinder the pursuers here.”

Had he been less perceptive, Faust might not have accepted their proposal.

But having a taste of valuable information, Faust couldn’t escape their offer.

“Good. You will—”

“However… nothing comes free, ‘Queen’.”

Of course, Faust wouldn’t die alone.

What he swiftly pulled out from his bag was a 〈Contract〉. Chiyou’s expression twisted.
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“Ha Leeha is not here. Ha Leeha is missing.”

Faust raised his altitude while riding the Ancient Lich Dragon, keeping a vigilant eye on his surroundings.

Although Luger, who had disappeared with Fernand, was a minor concern, any worries vanished after confirming the light bursting in the forest, attacking the Adult Dragon.

“As long as my head doesn’t suddenly explode, I can be at ease. Besides, who would have thought that Chiyou’s speculation would be wrong? No, I should commend her for arriving so quickly.”

From Faust’s perspective, not knowing when the Eastern New Continent Expedition set out, he could only assume they arrived here within a few days.

And what did it mean that Leeha was not in the group? It indicated that the person named Ha Leeha was not included in the enemy’s pursuit.

Faust felt a sense of exhilaration.

Watching spotted Lizardia’s sinister smile, Bailephus became enraged.

“How dare you daydream while facing me, you half-human necromancer! After Kuzgunak’sh, you dare to touch another red dragon!”

There were two reasons for his anger.

Faust, realizing something, widened his grin even more.

“Khaha, you, a metal dragon, disgustingly meddle in the affairs of a Chromatic Dragon. Was Kuzgunak’sh your lover or something? No wonder you couldn’t hold back and rushed in back then.”

“You wretched beast!”

Faust had also turned Kuzgunak’sh’s headless corpse into an undead.

He missed that situation keenly.

If he could have made that dragon a lich, his power would have been much greater.

“Well, the Dragon Heart was destroyed anyway. Now that I think about it, that was Ha Leeha’s doing too. Damn, what a curse.”

An inextricable bad connection that seemed to entangle wherever he went.

Looking at Bailephus and the Alexander combo charging at him, Faust’s expression finally turned serious.

The only opponents he could vent his anger towards Leeha on were the enemies right in front of him.


“〈Bone Spike〉, 〈Summon Undead: Ghost〉.”

Kwa-chachachak―!

A gigantic bone pillar shot towards Bailephus.

It was a skill with a sharp bone surface, like a saw-tooth sword fifty times larger than Igor’s. Although it exuded a sufficiently terrifying force, Bailephus blocked it with a light gesture.

“〈Flame Strike〉!”

Kwaaaaaaaaaaang───────!

“Hmm……”

Alexander found the ensuing smoke and explosion displeasing.

Faust should know better that a dragon could not be captured with bone-related skills.

Then why use such a skill?

“Kaahaaaaah—!”

“Kiieeeeee────!”

Breaking through the smoke, countless monsters charged at Alexander and Bailephus.

“Spectral entities!”

Moreover, these were ghost-type monsters that ordinary attacks could not affect, the ones Leeha found most daunting.

Seeing phantoms and half-transparent creatures approaching, Alexander was momentarily flustered, but his top-ranking combat senses remained intact.

“A cunning thought worthy of a lizard. I will handle this, comrade. 〈Judgment of Justice〉.”

As soon as he saw the explosion, light flashed from his spear, casting the skill.

Fwoooooong……!

It took just one swing to slice twenty-five spectral entities.


Faust felt momentarily astounded, but thanks to their delay in the air, he had more time to gather “reinforcements”.

“As expected of Middle Earth’s top individual! Go, dullahan, Death Knight! And—Breathe!”

It was a spectacle of monsters that neither Bailephus nor Alexander had ever experienced.

Various undead monsters, riding ghostly and skeletal horses, scattered to attack Bailephus while a high-temperature flame breath descended from the center.

“This will take… some time. Especially in this land where a dragon’s power is partially restricted…”

Alexander knew the trepidation in Bailephus’s voice.

There weren’t many Ancient Dragons superior to Bailephus.

Even if necromantic power was added, they believed the strength of dragons was on their side.

But this was not an ordinary situation.

While they were slightly restricted upon crossing into the Eastern New Continent, the enemy had gained an advantage through a secondary transformation into a Deathbringer, enhancing their power.

Moreover, the onslaught of unexpected necromantic skills forced Bailephus and Alexander to break their promise with the expedition team.

The promise was to swiftly deal with Faust and the Ancient Lich Dragon and then assist with the Adult Dragon.

“We have no choice but to trust them.”

The immediate issue was not that.

Even focusing entirely on completely repelling the enemies before them would not be easy.

Moreover, the fact that it was nighttime was the most unfortunate for the Eastern New Continent Expedition team.

“Kukuku, you will find it no easy feat to dodge. 〈Horror Ensemble〉.”

With his skills, he induced a mezz effect that caused the opponents’ abilities to drop.

Through summoning undead, he disrupted their concentration and caused target confusion.

In the midst of this gap, the Lich Dragon’s breath followed as the main attack.


Faust during “Night” had become proficient in simultaneously performing three tasks and controlling the surrounding Adult Lich Dragons.

* * *

As busy as the battle among the Ancient Dragons was in the high sky, the low-altitude skirmishes were equally hectic.

『Aaaaahhhh—!』

『〈Poison Swamp〉.〈Cloud Kill〉.』

“Run, Kidd! Don’t let your feet touch the ground!”

“I know! But we shouldn’t jump too high either!”

“Of course!”

Browless and Kidd enhanced their speed through leaps that were better described as lunges instead of mere jumps.

The land they had just traversed turned into a poisonous swamp and toxic clouds were emitted overhead, while the white dragon’s breath was launched obliquely.

Dodging these three simultaneous attacks and launching a counterattack? Such a feat was unattainable even for the most skilled musketeer.

—–, —-, —-!

-, -, -, -, -, -, -…….

That is, it would have been impossible if they were not those endowed with the attribute of Rapid Fire.

As Browless fired three heavy shots and Kidd expertly sent successive bullets, the white dragon, having unleashed its entire freezing breath, began casting a spell.

『〈Ice Wall〉.』

A thick and high ice wall appeared to block their bullets. However, the speed of the bullets was faster than the formation of the ice wall, and six of the fourteen bullets hit the dragon.

Some might consider six hits insignificant, but for them, it was significant. Both could see the white dragon staggering in the sky with those “mere six shots.”

Of course, there was no room for joy.

“The attack itself works, but—”

“—Linking them is the problem. We don’t have the leisure for follow-up attacks!”

As the white dragon’s focus wavered and the ice wall disappeared, a blue-scaled dragon crossed that space.

“The Blue Dragon’s breath is coming, scatter, Kidd!”

Just as Browless and Kidd, who were running together, turned in different directions, an explosion occurred in the neck of the Blue Dragon, which was about to unleash a thunderous breath similar to Blaugrunn’s.

Boom—!!!

『Ugh!? What is this—?』

The blue particles gathering in the Blue Dragon’s mouth vanished without a trace.

Naturally, Luger, the Cannoneer, had observed the scene and could not help but click his tongue in disappointment.

“Tch, if I could have hit it with Acht-Acht, I would have blown its head off…….”

Even though the attack was successful, it was not a second-tier job skill but a regular shot from the Cobalt Blue Python.

Fernand grabbed Luger’s sleeve urgently.

“We, we don’t have time! Other dragons are gathering near the Blue Dragon!”

“Damn it, don’t nag me! I see it too! You should find a safe place quickly!”

“There, there isn’t such a place—”

“Can’t the human compass find something like that!”

As the two bickered and started moving again, a brief tactical meeting was held near the dragons as Fernand had feared.

『Something has infiltrated. Copper, come with me. Paralyze the entire forest with your gas breath.』

As the black dragon flew off to find Luger, a Copper Dragon with literal copper-colored scales followed him.

It was unimaginable for Metal Dragons to take orders from a Chromatic Dragon, but as they had all become “Liches”, they were simply members of Faust’s family.

The Lich Dragons, who had even established their own hierarchy, moved with impeccable coordination, rivaling the best user parties in terms of synergy.

‘We expected it to be difficult, but this— the difficulty is absurd!’

Kidd almost tripped when the ground suddenly turned into ice but barely managed to regain his balance and move. A corrosive green spear pierced the spot he had stumbled on.

If he had fallen and lost speed, that spear would have impaled him.

What should they do? What sequence of attacks should they follow?

They couldn’t proceed as they would in a typical dragon raid. Moreover, in this numerically inferior situation, standard strategies wouldn’t work.

—Kidd! Do something! What’s taking the director so long? If we keep dodging like this, we’ll run into Kaztor! How much farther do we have to go?

A whisper that sounded like Luger’s scream reached his ears at that moment.

The expression of the running Kidd changed instantly.

―Indeed. Is this what you call a hunter’s instinct?

―What nonsense! Come here quickly! We need to regroup first―

―No, we need to run more. We need to scatter further.

―What?

To catch a Lich Dragon? This method was the best choice.

Kidd’s calculations were complete.

―The first thing that needed to be destroyed was the Lich Dragon’s chain attack. I will contact the lieutenant.

They thought they had to fight together because of their numerical disadvantage. Normally, facing monsters was a matter of many versus many. But this was not a normal situation and their enemy was not an ordinary monster.

Moreover, considering their own situation?

―You, you! Are you telling me to take on two dragons by myself!?

―Are you saying you can’t handle it, 〈Cannoneer〉?

―……I’ll show you what even a mere 〈Desperado〉 can do.

They were the only ones with such professions in Middle Earth.

Luger’s pride was wounded, and he growled in a low voice. That was enough.

Kidd whispered quickly to Browless, and Browless agreed immediately.

In that moment, Luger, who had Kidd and Fernand with him, started to scatter in different directions.

What was needed was not a 7:3 fight.

A 3:1, 2:1, and another 2:1 battle.

All that while staying as far away as possible from the Lich Dragon’s controller, the Deathbringer Faust.

“The cooldown is 7 days in Middle Earth time…a full day and a half in real-world time, but—”

Kidd glared at the dragons pursuing him.

He noticed the blue and white scales.

If they were electric and ice types, their skill combination and synergy wouldn’t be easy to handle either.

So, he had to decide.

“―I have no choice. If I want to take down the dragon the fastest.”

Now was the time to use his hidden skill.

He was far enough from Browless and Luger, and he couldn’t see any familiar terrain or landmarks of the Eastern New Continent anymore. Kidd quietly muttered.

“〈Overclock〉.”

Initiating temporary synchronization and brain input/output enhancement.

『Playtime with 100% synchronization: Condition met』

『Death count during 100% synchronization period: 0』

『Applicant’s status, level, and profession balance in existing world view: Excellent』

Skill—Overclock has been approved.

『Temporary synchronization change, current synchronization: 150%』

『Middle Earth system brain input/output enhancement rate: 400%』

『Optimal maintenance time: 3 minutes』

Using beyond the maintenance time may harm the user’s body. Be cautious.

Exceeding double the maintenance time will force disconnect from Middle Earth.

“Gaaaaaah—!”

Kidd threw off his hat and clutched his head.

Was it the agony of splitting his head with an axe? If this had been his first time, he wouldn’t have dared to use the skill and wouldn’t have endured such pain.

But he was the ‘Leader’ of the Three Musketeers.

“Hoo, hoo, hoo.”

Acquiring a skill and testing it under suitable conditions, imagining the perfect moment to use it, were basics among basics.

『Now― die, human.』

『Karrrr!』

The two Adult Lich Dragons, whose intelligence dropped to the level of normal dragons as they distanced themselves from Faust, dashed at Kidd.

Kidd watched the approaching dragons.

“Huuu……. I couldn’t use it during the Pyrot-Cocri incident, but—”

Even though it appeared he hadn’t moved from his spot, he had already picked up and was wearing the hat he had thrown.

“―There is no better skill than this.”

Kidd’s form vanished.

Simultaneously, 139 gunshots rang out.

139 holes were pierced into the body of the Blue Dragon.

TL’s Corner:

Damn, Kidd is like a gaming PC, getting overclocked and increasing his speed.
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─────────────…….

“What, what is that sound? System error?”

Fernand listened intently to the faint sound coming from afar.

The sound, heavily layered in an incredibly short time, echoed for an exceptionally long duration. It lingered far too long to be an explosion or a gunshot.

The intermittent screams, almost like wails, made the distinction even harder to make.

Of course, unlike Fernand’s questions, Luger recognized it immediately.

“… It’s a skill beyond the 〈Magnificent Seven〉. Is it the skill of 〈Desperado〉? Damn it.”

“Huh?”

It was natural to identify the skills of one’s ‘rivals’, and Luger had already confirmed the effective duration, time, and power of the skills Kidd possessed.

Clearly, it was different from Musketeer 『Rapid Fire』.

To keep a distance and refrain from showing it intentionally seemed suspicious.

Perhaps the whole strategy to scatter was an attempt to hide his skills?

Though it was a bothersome thought, Luger’s mind functioned most efficiently when flowing this way.

“Keke… That’s right. This is how you should come out. Ha Leeha was indeed a later competitor. From the start, it was a fight between you, Kidd, and me.”

The manifestation of rivalry and competitive desire.

The unique tension of a one-on-one duel, which only users who inherited the attributes of the Three Musketeers, the first and second, had.

Luger felt his body heat up.

Fernand, with a startled face, asked when he saw Luger’s twisted smile.

“Luger? What do you mean by that? Why would Kidd—”

“You don’t need to know. Just run. Keke… Human compass! Do you know about the Copper Dragon?”


“Copper Dragon uses Slow-type Breath! If it is enhanced by Faust, it won’t just be slow; you’ll be completely paralyzed!”

“So, it binds you and uses poison breath, is that it?”

They already knew that the Copper Dragon and black dragon were chasing them.

Being dragons, they would definitely use mana tracking, but in this vast forest, it would be hard to catch two people fleeing at high speed.

In the end, the Lich Dragons used two entities that could use a ‘widely distributed breath.’

『Arrogant insects, where are you going!』

Fuuwah────────!

With the dragon’s roar and breath echoing from the sky, Fernand quickly stopped and changed directions.

“Judging by the breath’s spread—let’s dodge this way!”

“Ha, as expected of a human compass.”

Though he grumbled, Luger was quite relieved.

The breath spread from behind. They alternated using it, and they spewed it in different sections, making it nearly impossible to avoid after seeing it.

The fact that they hadn’t inhaled even a single breath of toxic gas until now was all thanks to Fernand, and Luger’s instincts, having confirmed this by evading the breath multiple times, were now stirring.

“How far will we go?”

“Keep moving farther. Further!”

“No matter how far we go—merely dodging isn’t going to be the solution!”

“That will suffice. You just do that, human compass.”

“What? It’s not like dodging forever from two adult dragons is feasible. What if we get tired—”

“We won’t go that far. If they start turning into ‘bones’ from ‘Liches’ at that point, and there’s the terrain I want….”

Luger tightly gripped the Cobalt Blue Python.


“It’s enough.”

“Enough, you say… Dragons are like a combination of bombers and fighters, no matter how many guns—”

“So that’s why it’s enough, stupid!”

Luger shouted at Fernand.

However, what he said coincided exactly with Luger’s thoughts.

Two adult dragons?

What does it matter?

“Bombers and fighters, you say… Anti-aircraft guns were made to take down planes.”

That’s exactly what the skills of a ‘Cannoneer’ exist for!

Watching Luger’s sly smile, Fernand realized once again why this man was called the ‘Warlord’ and ‘War Mercenary.’

At that moment, he clearly understood why all users in Middle Earth avoided this man, who was entirely confident even in extremely unfavorable situations.

* * *

While Kidd used 〈Overclock〉 and Luger worked to create a suitable situation, Alexander and Bailephus fought against Faust and Labatt.

Despite it being a night sky, the light emitted by the two dragons and Alexander illuminated the surroundings brighter than a flare.

『Fire Pillar, wild Tornado!』

Bailephus created a pillar of fire in the designated air space.

However, with nothing to support it, the fire pillar began to fall towards the ground. At that moment, a gust of wind intertwined the fire pillars and directed them towards Faust.

“Fire magic again! Labatt!”

『Fire against a red dragon… Bailephus, how did Kuzi-nim fall to you?』

『Silence, you fool! The chromatic clan always resorts to these foolish acts!』


『You’re the foolish one. 『Fire Absorption.』』

Shuuuu—!

The vertical whirlwind of fire was sucked into Labatt’s mouth like dust into a vacuum cleaner.

『… Can your heart endure that much?』

Bailephus’s expression darkened for a moment.

It was impossible to absorb large mana with a smaller mana tank. Even the Kuzgunak’sh couldn’t do such a thing.

So, with Labatt perfectly absorbing Bailephus’s magic without any side effects, it proved that Labatt was a dragon with superior skills than Bailephus.

『I am not just any dragon, Bailephus. I have grown stronger with the power of the Deathbringer here. Why don’t you become a Lich Dragon as well?』

『Have you lost even your dragon pride?』

Despite Bailephus’s rebuke, Labatt remained calm.

『Pride? What is that?』

『A dragon obeying mere nonhumans—』

『Ha! Knowing your rivals with Kuzgunak’sh-nim, you cannot be ignorant of our situation. While your metal dragon clan has an absolute king, what about us? How long must we follow Onyx, who is merely an elder in title? You know Onyx is not a special dragon but merely a member of the chromatic clan!』

『Ugh…』

The metal dragon clan had Bahamut.

A perfect being forming a vertical hierarchy. But what about the Chromatic Dragons?

As Labatt said, they remained horizontal in structure.

Onyx was forcibly promoted to elder to lead the Chromatic clan, but not everyone agreed it was right.

『There was a human who told me what actions I should take for the Chromatic Dragons. He wondered why Kuzgunak’sh-nim acted as he did. His name was Ha Leeha, if I recall correctly.』

A single person’s words pulled the trigger of dissatisfaction.

『Light of Justice—huh? 』

『Summon Unde—what?』

Even amidst the fierce battle involving the undead, the mention of this name made Alexander and Faust lose concentration on their skills.

Even the Ancient Dragon Bailephus was startled enough to falter in his flight for a moment.

『What… Ha Leeha?』

『Yes. Despite his weak fists, something inside me changed the moment I was struck.』

Bailephus could not even muster a rebuke about being influenced by a human.

Summoned by the Chromatic Dragon clan, Leeha once argued with the black dragon Onyx over a Fire Flower.

At that time, Labatt, the red dragon, had breathed fire beside Onyx to subdue Leeha.

『Even if you were influenced by him! Do you think becoming a Lich Dragon is what Kuzgunak’sh wished for?』

Bailephus quickly changed his argument, shouting, but Labatt’s resolve was firm.

『Escaping Onyx’s tyranny, becoming the ultimate power to lead the Chromatic clan—that is what Kuzgunak’sh-nim wished for. So, I… But! I decided not to rely on such uncertain methods.』

『Do you mean to lead in person, as a Lich Dragon? Without the power of nonhumans, you will revert to being a mere base dragon!』

『We will find out in battle! 『Ignition Burst, enchant Fire!』

『Alexander, duck! Huuuuup—!』

Pwooosh─────────!

Bailephus unleashed his White Fire Breath.

Though flames over ten thousand degrees Celsius spewed from the Hwangryong’s mouth, they could not match the small fireball sent by the opponent.

The reason Bailephus told Alexander to duck and immediately ascended further into the air was this.

“We could not block it?”

『Protecting both from flames over twenty-five thousand degrees Celsius is difficult.』

“I see. Faust’s undead are not easy. They seem to be continuously supplied with mana.”

『Vampires grow stronger at night.』

“Yet we cannot fight until sunrise—ah.”

Talking without much thought, Alexander raised his head.

He looked up at the sky, darker than darkness itself. Facing the cold night wind, he gazed at the heavens.

“We need to climb higher, partner.”

『Do you have a method?』

Alexander whispered to Bailephus. This was done cautiously so that Faust wouldn’t hear, and soon Bailephus’s eyes widened.

『Indeed. We can do it.』

“Let’s go.”

Shooouuuuuu───────!

As they ascended and accelerated further, an explosion occurred in the sky below them.

The location was already quite far from them, both in terms of height and distance.

『An explosion?』

“Luger. Still a madman.”

Bailephus worried if it could be another danger, but Alexander recognized it immediately.

Seeing Luger’s exploits left him feeling a bit unsettled.

Could one really face an adult dragon without any help?

“… It won’t be easy next time.”

Even Alexander, who had directly fought Luger in a 1:1 battle, had to acknowledge his secondary job transfer.

Had he known that Luger was dealing with two adult dragons alone, Alexander’s face would have scrunched up.

* * *

『Kyaaaaaaa―! How dare a human!』

『Krrrr, rrrrrr…』

“It’s been devoured! Luger-ssi! It’s been devoured! And one of them seems unable to speak properly, surely transitioning into a bona fide dragon form!”

“Shut up, I know! Uuuuuugh…!”

Luger’s groan didn’t come just from his mouth.

Using all his strength, he worked on adjusting the barrel and angle of the 〈Acht-Acht〉 from below his diaphragm.

‘It’s hard to read their movements. Damn dragons.’

Since the first hit, he had been flying even more cautiously.

Though they were demoted from lich to regular undead, they didn’t become completely brainless.

As long as they could engage basic intelligence, they wouldn’t slow down.

“They’re dispersing! Luger-ssi! Black and Copper are moving in different directions!”

No, with their reduced intelligence, they had come up with a new tactic.

As his growing fears became a reality, Luger gritted his teeth.

“This is going to be my quest.”

“Pardon?”

“In the state of Acht-Acht… How many seconds does it take to change the direction and angle of fire… That’s what you want to know, right, Python? You boring snake-headed thing.”

“What are you talking about, hurry up! You have to shoot quickly!”

Despite Fernand’s urging, Luger remained unfazed.

When he finally steadied his breath and his eyes shifted momentarily, the second barrage of the 〈Acht-Acht〉 began.

Approximately 2 hours and 20 minutes had passed since Faust and the others initially appeared.

* * *

『Krrrk, kkk, krak!』

『Hu, man, kakh!』

The two dragons could barely move.

If they tried to retreat, an attack would come from behind. If they tried to dodge sideways, an attack would come from the sides.

Attack began from the direction the dragons attempted to move, and the attacker was beyond the dragons’ perception. Without the ability to teleport, they had no way to evade.

Huu, huu…

However, the attacker’s situation wasn’t all that good either.

Even though Kidd had pierced through the scales and tore apart the muscles of the two adult dragons, it had already been 4 minutes and 40 seconds into 〈Overclock〉.

Using the skill beyond the maintenance time could harm the user’s body, so caution was advised.

『Time remaining until forced termination: 1 minute 19 seconds』

How many bullets had he fired to tackle the dragons in that time?

When using existing skills under the Overclock state, even the skill casting sped up.

Kidd had used almost all his skills, such as the Seven of the Wild and Eighteen Panning.

Typically, Kidd carried bullets up to the limit of his strength, but now even those bullets were about to run out.
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2,300 rounds.

The bullets poured out over the last 4 minutes―

But the dragon was still holding on. It was clearly being neutralized, yet it was also undeniable that it was enduring.

‘Did I fall short? Damn it!’

If it had been a full-fledged dragon, it would have been enough. Those without intelligence or the use of a ‘Dragon Heart’ would have turned into ashen corpses from sheer accumulated damage alone. However, since it was still partially in its Lich Dragon state, to perfectly hunt the dragons, the heart needed to be destroyed.

Kakakakakakaka―!

The dragons knew this too. That’s why they protected their hearts even as all their scales were peeled off and their wings were tattered.

‘But you can’t endure forever. Neither can I, for that matter. The only gap I aim for, both you and I, are headed for catastrophe.’

Two dragons shielded their chests with their hands. The scales on their knuckles were already all peeled off, and their hands were so shattered that they could no longer be called ‘hands.’

Every time the bullets struck those completely destroyed spots, grotesque scenes of dragon flesh flying occurred, but Kidd did not care.

“The chest scales within the knuckles are already done for.”

In other words, if Kidd penetrated those hands that can hardly be called hands anymore, and lodge bullets into the chest where he planted 139 bullets before they could even recognize an enemy in a single second.

Be careful, exceeding the maintenance time can harm the user’s body.

『Time until forced termination: 1 minute』

But now, he had to make a choice.

‘Should I change course and quickly join Browless?’

Browless was the NPC Kidd liked and respected the most, but it wouldn’t be easy for him to deal with three by himself.

A weak point could arise in this carefully scattered strategy.

‘And if I keep shooting?’

After 1 minute, the backlash from Overclock would hit him hard.


If he didn’t prudently create some distance and hide his body before the skill ends, he will die at the hands of the dragons.

‘Still, for now― Hmm?’

─────────────…….

In the midst of the frantic movement, Kidd heard a distinct explosion.

It was not from Browless’s gun. More importantly, the sound came in a ‘horizontal’ direction, not ‘vertical.’

There was only one person who could do that.

Luger…

With a smile, Kidd thought of the source of the explosion. Imagining Luger mustering his strength lifted his own emotions.

‘So this is why gambling is the fate of 〈Desperado〉.’

Kidd recalled two NPCs related to his second job change.

The reason why those incredibly strong NPCs were mingled with hatred for each other—it was gambling.

If this is the fate of Desperado, then Kidd was ready to accept it.

Be careful, exceeding the maintenance time can harm the user’s body.

『Time until forced termination: 30 seconds』

So as soon as the 30-second warning message appeared, he used his final skill.

“I shall control this moment. Everybody halt, 〈Hold’em〉.”

Kidd used a skill.

Kidd and the two dragons froze.

Like they were frozen or forcibly logged out, the three beings didn’t blink an eye. Neither did their breathing nor the rise and fall of their chests.

For exactly 10 seconds, they began moving again only after 10 seconds.


Ten seconds of doing nothing?

No, that was not it.

“Phew… 〈Overclock Release〉.”

A white light shone from Kidd’s body. The two dragons, turned ashen, were falling with gaping holes in their chests.

Watching this, Kidd collapsed to the ground.

He couldn’t even entertain the thought of going to help Browless.

* * *

“Kuhahahah! Where are you going, Alexander!? Do you think you can escape me by flying into the sky? Labatt!”

『〈Dust Bomb〉』

At the altitude they had already reached, they couldn’t use normal magic. Following Faust’s orders, Labatt cast an immediate area spell, transforming the dust into a bomb that detonated around them. Both Alexander and Bailephus struggled to maintain their flight amidst this barrage.

『It’s the first time I’ve come up this high. How much further do you plan on going?』

“Just a little more. Just a little more”, Alexander urged Bailephus onward.

They had been flying almost vertically for several minutes. Finally, they reached a point where even Alexander and Faust’s bodies began to show signs of stress.

Status Effect: Resisted Extreme Cold (Enhanced)

Status Effect: Resisted Freezing (Enhanced)

“Haha! Was this your plan? To weaken the red dragon’s attribute? Or to inflict a status effect on me? Sorry, Alexander! Hehe, these things no longer affect me!”

Faust shouted while gripping tightly onto Labatt’s scales.

As he said, the resistance to status effects they had was sufficient, making these actions meaningless.

Alexander furrowed his brow momentarily, but Bailephus continued to soar.

『Are you trying to avoid a duel with me, Bailephus?』


『I have no reason to fight someone younger than Kuzgunak’sh.』

『That’s ridiculous. I’ve already proven I’m stronger than you. I’m now the most powerful in the Chromatic clan!』

『It’s not your strength. It’s not your strength that… I’ll show you.』

『What?!』

Labatt slowed down momentarily, attempting evasive maneuvers. However, contrary to his confident words, Bailephus made no attack, continuing only to ascend.

Faust, hitting Labatt’s head, ordered him to pursue.

“Fine. If you don’t stop, I’ll end you here. Did you think my minions couldn’t move in the air? Reverse Catacomb, go!”

Death Knights on ghost horses rapidly closed the distance.

『Alexander!』

“Don’t worry, partner. I’ll handle these revived corpses. Do what you must.”

With Bailephus’s urgent tone in his ears, Alexander grasped his spear. Five Death Knights approached, each nearly level 300 monsters and far from easy prey. Their undead nature made them particularly tough to deal with.

“Holy Flame.”

A yellow flame enveloped Alexander’s spear, allowing him to extend and retract its length as he swung at the ghost horses.

『Whinnying―!』

『Screeching―!』

The ghost horses retreated, screaming each time Alexander’s spear touched them. The Death Knights, unable to close the distance to swing their swords, were helpless.

“Damn it―, Labatt!”

『Bailephus’s mana is acting strange.』

“What? Even if he uses a skill now, what can it do? Just breathe fire already!”

Under Faust’s orders, Labatt inhaled deeply. Even by NPC calculations, the breath attack might barely reach.

『Hhhnghhh―!』

“Ugh, even breathing is getting difficult, this cursed game! So realistic― no, wait. Breathing?”

As Labatt prepared to use his breath attack, Faust finally realized why Bailephus had continued to ascend.

“No way!?”

“Too late, servant of the night. Bailephus!”

Seeing Faust’s wide-eyed realization, Alexander smiled. No more mana particles entered Bailephus’s body.

『We’ve reached the end of the atmosphere. This is the ultimate altitude living creatures can reach.』

No living flying creature could surpass this height. In an almost stratospheric scenario where oxygen was naturally scarce, breathing became difficult even with levels and stats providing adjustments. Essentially, they had reached the boundary of the stratosphere—space.

『〈Self-Illuminating Star〉.』

At this final limit, where the brightness of the sun could be drawn from, this wasn’t an ordinary skill.

It wasn’t an ordinary skill utilizing heat.

『Ah, agh! Ma, mana― power―』

A small sun appeared above Bailephus’s head, retaining the energy of the original.

As Faust struggled, lavattl’s power weakened proportionally.

“Damn it, what kind of skill is this— 〈Bone Shield〉, 〈Dark—〉”

“Do you think I would let you do that? I also have skills I can use under the sun! 〈Dawn of Justice〉!”

Although he shouted the skill name in a last-ditch effort, Alexander did not stand idly by.

The flames burning from his spear had now transformed into light. With the shimmering waves of light, he thrust his spear forward.

A weakened Faust and Labatt, who had lost more than half of their strength, could not block Alexander’s attack.

“Aaaah, cr— 〈Dead Pretence〉.”

In a moment of crisis, Faust thought of and used another skill, but it was of little help.

Alexander’s spear had already pierced the spot where Labatt’s dragon heart was located.

『Elder Kuz—』

Labatt could no longer speak.

Bailephus turned his head away, looking at him with gloomy eyes.

───────────────!

“Cough, the light—”

『Don’t worry. It’s just that the heart was destroyed.』

The light radiating from the shattered dragon heart was intensified by the sunlight created by Bailephus.

Faust, who had turned ashen gray, was powerlessly flicked and began to plummet.

About four hours had passed since Faust and his lich dragon appeared, and Luger, Kidd, and Fernand were looking up at a scene that had become as bright as midday.

No more enemies pursued them.

* * *

Though they had been scattered for a relatively long time, reuniting wasn’t difficult. Even though it was close to midnight, the surroundings were still bright.

“I’m glad you’re safe, Kidd.”

“Of course. I thought following Luger might be dangerous, but seeing you safe puts my mind at ease.”

Fernand and Kidd inquired after each other’s well-being.

Even amidst this exchange, Luger seemed ready to pounce on Kidd’s playful remark.

“What, what are you saying, you bastard!? Do you have any idea how much trouble I went through? I had to adjust angles by 156 degrees left and right, and 20 degrees up and down, like a human compass! Just say a word!”

Luger wanted to brag a bit about his accomplishments but couldn’t bring himself to do it.

‘If Kidd is this safe…’

In the end, it also meant Kidd had successfully dealt with two adult dragons.

Would it be unseemly for those who had done what ordinary Middle Earth users couldn’t even imagine to feel some pride?

As Alexander and Bailephus descended, the Eastern Expeditionary Force of the New Continent finally gathered.

“Headmaster Browless is nowhere to be seen.”

Except for the NPC, director Browless.

Before Kidd finished speaking, Bailephus flew into the air again.

Alexander also wanted to verify Faust’s corpse, to see where it had fallen and if he was truly dead, but he had no time for that.

“Damn it, I don’t think the director would have been defeated, but—”

“You know it as well, having faced him! The director had one more level than us, and considering his chain attacks, he’s over twice as dangerous—… huh?”

“Over there! Something is flying in!”

While Luger and Kidd worried about Browless, Fernand spotted something.

Even Bailephus, who fluttered in the air, was staring in that direction with a stiff expression.

“What on earth is that?”

Even the great Alexander struck an awkward posture.

It wasn’t easy to decide whether he should attack or not.

Buzz-buzz-buzz-buzz───────…

Fortunately, the surroundings were still bright, allowing them to see the strange creature flying in the air clearly.

“Director, is the ride comfortable?”

“W-well, yes… but this is quite embarrassing.”

“That’s what Haus-Haus is like. Still, considering the speed and comfort of the ride, it’s fine.”

The sound, like that of a giant wasp’s wings, came from above the creature’s head.

Two humans were tied awkwardly to the outstretched legs of the airborne creature.

“Oh! I see them! The light was strangely bright, I met the director on the way—”

Hearing the random greeting, the users called upon had no idea how to react.

There was only one thing they could say.

“Ha Leehaaaaaaaaa!?”

They shouted Leeha’s name at the top of their lungs as he rode on the mysterious creature.

“Kidd! Luger! Alexander! Fernand! Bailephus! Hahaha! Caught up with you!”

Leeha waved his hand cheerfully, held aloft by Haus-Haus, which buzzed through the empty night sky.

Next to Leeha, Browless pulled his hat down to hide from their gazes.
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– “The previous Contractor has died.”

“Well, that’s not it. Hmm, you don’t have any memories before you woke up, do you?”

– “I do. That’s why I clearly remember. Hehe… The Contractor is dead.”

“No! Ugh, what’s the point of arguing with you, black? Anyway, we’ll see soon enough.”

Since he had deactivated 『Melding Breath』, Leeha could converse with Black Bass. The reason for deactivating the skill was simple.

*Buzz, buzz, buzz───────…*

Leeha raised his head briefly at the noise he heard during his conversation with Black Bass.

The feet—whether they were feet or tentacles was still unknown—of Househouse were spinning furiously above his head like the rotor of a helicopter.

‘Meeting Househouse was truly a stroke of luck.’

Leeha, who had met them while in the Melding Breath state, deactivated the skill to approach them.

Although Leeha couldn’t understand their conversation, they could understand him.

Fortunately, the ‘destination’ was clear.

The locations where Luger and Kidd appeared in the Three Musketeers’ teleport were plainly visible to Leeha.

Therefore, he was able to request help, and now, he was being transported while clinging to Househouse’s feet—whether they were hands or feet was still unknown.

“They’re fast and, most importantly, they’re moving to a ‘safe zone without monsters’, so there’s nothing to worry about. Maybe the monsters are avoiding them.”

Initially, riding Househouse required considerable caution.

Due to the low-altitude flight, anyone on the ground would easily see Leeha and Househouse, exposing them to potential danger from long-range attacking monsters.

However, the ‘direction setting’ of Househouse was more accurate than Leeha’s 『Eagle’s Eye』 and 『Distorted Vision』.

“Do they have all the information on the New Continent’s monsters or something? How can they so brilliantly avoid every monster?”

They avoided monsters with minimal evasion maneuvers and moved mostly in a straight line.


Once Leeha confirmed that they could avoid the monsters multiple times, there was no more worry.

He just clung to Househouse’s feet and admired the monsters, sniping them as he pleased.

『Awakened Legendary Black Bass (1st Reinforcement—Magma)』

(Non-tradable)

Charge Rate: 36.52%

“Haha, so, capturing eight monsters raised it by about 3.1%.”

The average charge rate was more than a single vampire!

This solidified Leeha’s infinite trust and fondness for Househouse.

He conjectured that the prior achievements in the area were enough to assume the previous Engravers had taken care of most monsters, as there were no new achievements listed for monsters.

‘In the meantime, I brought up the topic of Elizabeth…’

How far had the Eastern Expedition gone? What conversations did they have?

Thinking about them, Leeha indeed brought up Elizabeth to Black Bass.

At least the previous Contractor who used Black Bass, and the reason Leeha found it hard to easily call Black Bass as “Bess”, was all because of Elizabeth.

The response he got was exactly “dead”.

“Elizabeth is dead… That can’t be. I definitely saw her alive. Black! So, are you saying she died at a point you know? You didn’t sense her being far away and say that, right?”

– I can sense from a distance with the current Contractor’s status, but the previous Contractor doesn’t matter.

“Oh? So you can tell my status? How?”

They connected with Black Bass.

Since Leeha never saw any system notification like that, his curiosity only grew.

However, despite his serious question, Black Bass just let out a sly laugh.


– Hehehe… I can know. You see, the Contractor’s blood is what I’ve tasted the most.

Was he joking? Was he serious?

Leeha couldn’t help but laugh hollowly.

“Am I supposed to believe these edgy lines or not? And why so creepy? When did you even taste my blood…”

Muttering skeptically, Leeha considered the possibility that Elizabeth might have died due to Kaztor’s pursuit being faster than expected.

‘Anyhow, since Black Bass said he can’t sense Elizabeth’s current state, it might not be that. Hmm… Did he just declare it “death” when Black Bass left her?’

Or was there something more?

*Buzz, buzz, buzz───────…*

“Ah! What’s going on, househouse?”

A sudden movement broke Leeha’s concentration.

Unlike the smooth flight while avoiding monsters, the sudden jerk was intense. But there was no need to ask or wait for an answer.

*Boom, boom, boom───────…!*

Although the light flashed briefly, the roar continued to be heard.

“It’s so predictable. That way! Please, go that way!”

It was precisely when Luger fired his first shot.

* * *

Leeha immediately inserted a magazine and opened the scope.

Judging by the faint sounds of explosions, the distance must still have been quite far.

Even after equipping his night-vision goggles and surveying the front, there was still nothing visible.

Alexander and Bailephus, along with Faust and Labattle, had already begun to soar higher than the low altitude at which Leeha was flying. Kidd, Browless, and Luger were also splitting in different directions.


“The direction itself is correct― but what’s going on? Did they find Kaztor?”

―The smell of decayed flesh and the strong scent of blood.―

“What?”

―I said it’s the smell of things that should have decayed and vanished. Hehe, this will be another new flavor.―

Black Bass gave a hint about the essence of the situation, but Leeha couldn’t understand it precisely at that moment.

It took another hour and twenty minutes of flight for Leeha to realize that the description was of a Lich Dragon and a Bone Dragon when he encountered Browless and three Adult Dragons.

Leeha did not call out to Browless.

He didn’t want to disrupt Browless’ concentration, who was busy evading the Breath attacks and the magic linked to those Breaths from the three dragons.

The important thing right now was to signal his arrival.

“Whew… The location of a dragon’s heart is limited. If Blaugrunn was here, he would know for sure.”

More than just shouting, it was crucial to prove it real.

“Ah… At least the most likely spot is here. This is the first shot, black.”

―Just shoot already.―

“〈White Reaper〉.”

Activating White Reaper.

Beginning unification with the chosen rifle.

The rifle has rejected the user.

Unification with the chosen rifle failed.

『Final Unification Rate: 55.5%』

The unification hadn’t changed.

Although he had experienced this with Pyrot-Cocri before, the disappointment didn’t vanish.

“Strictly speaking, it hasn’t fully awakened.”

Despite the trace of regret in his thoughts, his breathing remained steady. The sniper’s scope must stay unwavering when aiming at a target.

White Reaper (Limited) was fired.

────────────……!!!!

Boom―!

The fanfare of achievement was just a bonus.

Indeed, the heavens helped those who helped themselves.

“What’s this? A 7.3% increase? Now that I think about it, the color seems peculiar― does this mean that each dragon’s unique characteristics are actually their ‘species’ itself?”

With one shot, Black Bass was charged by 7.3%.

Although he momentarily fell into a panic, his hands moved swiftly.

Before the Adult Dragons, who were distracted by Browless, could notice Leeha, he had already reloaded and fired.

Twokwooooooooooo…………!

The inherited attribute was 『Accuracy』.

The action was 『Rapid Fire』.

The destructive power was 『Pierce』.

As if containing everything from the Three Musketeers in one shot, Leeha’s bullet destroyed another Adult Dragon’s heart.

It was a puzzling point for Leeha.

Lich Dragons and Bone Dragons were different from ordinary dragons.

Unlike before, when he used another heart as ammunition to destroy it directly, it was possible with common attacks on Adult Dragons, which is why many users undertook raids of that level.

But was it ‘this’ easy?

That was precisely what left Leeha speechless.

“Ha, I planned to shoot once and then fire a multi-warhead shot… but why…”

To put it bluntly, Leeha was surprised by his own strength!

“How did I become this strong?”

When the white light burst forth from Leeha’s body, the charge rate of the Black Bass had already reached 49.99%.

Unlike Leeha who blinked, the muzzle of the Black Bass flashed rapidly.

Ha, ha, ha, ha, ha.

* * *

“… So… you captured two?”

Luger glared at Leeha.

Leeha shrugged and handed over what he had looted. Two scales of different colors glittered in his hand.

Looting was essential, no matter how urgent the situation was!

This story was common among all three members of the Three Musketeers.

“Yeah. It was close. Luckily, the heart was exactly where I aimed, otherwise, I don’t know what I would have done. Househouse is quick but pretty timid. If the dragons had rushed in, it would’ve run away immediately.”

“Captured two… with just two bullets?”

“Uh, was it two bullets? Ah! Yes, it was two.”

Leeha responded with a bashful smile. As Kidd averted his gaze from Leeha to look at Browless.

Was it really just two bullets?

Did you see that attack?

Is Ha Leeha that strong?

Kidd’s eyes held many questions, but Browless discreetly avoided his gaze.

Browless, who cherished all of his three disciples, was programmed not to let any one of them appear particularly strong or noticeable.

Thus, avoiding the gaze itself was an answer to Kidd’s question.

Kidd looked at Leeha again.

Leeha faced them with a smile, unaware of why Luger and Kidd reacted this way, or of their struggles, which only aggravated the two further.

But what could they do by getting angry?

Kidd sighed deeply and muttered.

“Well, if I had aimed from the beginning, I wouldn’t have needed a single bullet.”

“What nonsense is that, Kidd? Are you saying you’ve reached a point where you don’t even need to use guns? Well, it’s the same for me. If I’d known the power of the 〈Acht-Acht〉, the dragons would have bitten their tongues and committed suicide―”

“That’s not what I meant, and Luger, you don’t need to know.”

Despite Luger’s outburst, Kidd did not provide an answer.

The fact that each person secretly knew at least one thing the others didn’t, maintained a delicate balance among the three.

“Amazing, Ha Leeha. That your… strength has already reached such a level.”

Bailephus marveled sincerely.

However, Leeha noticed how Bailephus quickly glanced over Black Bass.

Leeha smiled and thanked him.

“With Leeha’s help, we can increase our pace. Fernand, can we prepare to leave immediately?”

“Ah, yes! Of course. Now that I think about it, there’s no time to chat and laugh.”

“… Because of that cartridge?”

Leeha had not only been talking about himself.

Riding Househouse with Browless, he had heard enough to guess their current situation.

“Um. Bailephus.”

“Yes. I’d like to recommend a good rest for everyone, but please bear with it for now. 〈Mass Recover―”

“Bailephus, partner.”

“Hmm? What is it, Alexander?”

As Bailephus began to cast his skill, Alexander spoke.

“Have you ever seen… Faust’s corpse?”

“Corpse? No, I’ve never seen that of the Necromancer.”

“His mana?”

“Mana? I do not feel it. Why do you ask?”

Alexander frowned at Bailephus’s answer.

He had clearly seen Faust fall, and while the other users moved to help Browless, he intended to check Faust’s corpse first.

“… There is no corpse. Not only did I not find a single drop item, but also no trace other than Labatt’s corpse.”

However, that was impossible.

“Are you saying… he didn’t die?”

Fernand asked with wide eyes. Bailephus replied as if it couldn’t be.

“Alexander, partner. Did you not clearly see the ash-gray shadow falling off Labatt’s body?”

“That is precisely the problem, Bailephus. The last skill he used, if it was 【Dead Pretence】…”

However, Alexander could understand.

Though it was mere speculation, it seemed plausible.

Could a Necromancer kill themselves?

Having turned into a vampire, could he have killed himself while also remaining undead, turning himself into an Undead?
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“We were all deceived.”

Bailephus also wore a stunned expression at Alexander’s words. Faust was still alive.

The only relief was that there were no more dragons. However, the fact that he could still summon undead forces was a significant issue.

“…… Let’s depart.”

At this point, there was only one thing they could do, catch up with Kaztor as quickly as possible.

Leeha also decided to discard any light-hearted feelings and began to move.

* * *

“Hello!”

“Salute───”

Even before Kijung’s cheerful greeting was finished, the guard of the Papal Hall of Ezwen had formed a line.

“Oh, no! You don’t have to do that. It makes me reluctant to come to the Papal Hall.”

Kijung’s protest was as quick as the guards’ salute.

The guards hurriedly lowered their spears and corrected their stance.

“We, we apologize, Exorcism Cardinal! If you do not deign to visit the Papal Hall, we—”

“Ha, I’m joking. But it really is a burden, so a regular greeting will suffice. Understood?”

“Understood!”

Seeing their troubled faces, Kijung laughed.

The proper threat learned from Leeha was enough to make Kijung handle even NPCs expertly.

“Why? If it were me, I’d want them to do it even grander. If they greeted me like that every time, I’d probably come in and out a hundred times a day.”

Raphaela tilted her head curiously.


“……. Raphaela, you do have a saintly image to maintain—”

Hyein spoke in an exasperated tone.

“That’s an image created by the people of Minis. I don’t particularly like the saintly image. If anything, I’d rather hold the position of the Great Abbot of Minis—”

“Oh dear…….”

An entourage causing such commotion while entering the Papal Hall of Ezwen was rare.

The group of six met again in front of the Papal Hall after spending the promised three days separately. Initially, they were five, but with Rubini tagging along, they became six.

In the lively atmosphere, Kijung suddenly thought of someone.

‘Lark didn’t come?’

He had expected that Lark would come by to collect any crumbs, so his absence was surprising.

‘Leeha hyung said he was busy, but someone like Lark didn’t come. He seemed to be logged in…..’

Immediately upon logging in, he received various reports using the guild master’s authority, and in the midst of casual conversation with Bobae, he heard about Shin Nara’s recent activities.

‘Come to think of it, Bobae said Shin Nara and Lark went somewhere.’

They crossed over to the Old Continent to do something urgent. However, what that was remained unknown. Out of curiosity, Kijung sneaked around and saw them heading somewhere together.

That’s all the information Kijung got from Bobae.

‘For someone as talkative as Shin Nara to leave without asking for help…..and even keeping the destination a secret.’

Although it was concerning, the acceptance of their audience request and imminent entry into the pope’s office helped Kijung refocus.

“His Holiness will see you now.”

“Yes, cardinal. Thank you for guiding us.”

After thanking the NPC Cardinal who attended the pope, Kijung looked back at his companions.

“So… Have you finished deciding what to choose? Let’s go!”


Creak……!

As the door finally opened, the pope, Urban II, greeted them with a brighter expression than ever.

“Welcome, heroes!”

The pope’s greeting was more than enough.

Ba-bam!

Hyein, Peiyu, Ram Hwajung, and Rubini, who had no prior exchanges with Ezwen, achieved accomplishments simply from this act.

Their closeness with Ezwen and their chances of future audience requests with the pope, along with additional damage against undead, were highly practical accomplishments included in this.

In the midst of it, Hyein and Raphaela even radiated the light of leveling up.

So, what about Kijung, who led them through all of this?

“We have successfully completed the mission, Your Holiness.”

“I have already been informed, Exorcism Cardinal.”

Ba-bam!

『Turn Undead』

You have completed the quest.

Level increased.

Level increased.

You have acquired the achievement of 〈Infinite Trust of the Pope〉.

You have acquired the achievement of 〈Permitted to Wield the Mace of the Supreme God〉.

You have acquired the achievement of 〈Rising Star of the Ezwen Theocracy〉.

You have acquired the achievement of 〈Jealousy of the Cardinals〉.


He had all sorts of titles that couldn’t be described merely as practical.

Congratulations, everyone!

The first S+ grade achievement in Middle Earth has been obtained.

『Master Kay, Holy Knight, lv. 288, affiliation: Fibiel』

Other users, please strive even harder not to be outdone!

“S…”

“Plus…?”

The first thing Kijung did was to block whispers.

* * *

“I see! So that’s where Ha Leeha appeared.”

Pope Urban II rejoiced like a child as he listened to the story of Kijung’s party.

However, most of the explanation about how they came to defeat Pyrot-Cocri was given by Raphaela, with Hyein and others occasionally assisting.

People wanted Kijung to explain first, but he couldn’t.

His mind wasn’t in the right state to explain anything.

‘This is insane… What on earth is this…’

An S+ grade achievement!

Why had it never appeared until now?

Kijung finally understood that this was given only to those who played a significant role in the world of Middle Earth, beyond merely defeating or acquiring something.

〈Achievement: Permitted to Wield the Mace of the Supreme God (S+)〉

Congratulations!

You have built over 100% trust with Pope 『Urban II』, becoming the sword and shield of the Ezwen Theocracy! Your unwavering faith has undoubtedly moved the Supreme God Ahlo as well. We trust that you will lead the frontlines in defending this continent from all demonic forces that deny peace, love, and justice.

The fact that the Supreme God Ahlo has permitted you to wield His mace is proof of this.

Reward: 30 stat points

Holy attribute resistance +50%

Status effect ‘Fear’ resistance +30%

All stats increase by 10% when there are undead among the enemies

Additional damage +5% when attacking undead

Damage taken -5% when hit by undead

Eligible for ordination as a bishop

(You can choose and manage one out of 15 dioceses in Fibiel.)

Skill obtained―Ahlo’s Mace

You are the first one to register the achievement 〈Permitted to Wield the Mace of the Supreme God〉.

The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the current effect will be applied.

Effect: 60 stat points

Holy attribute resistance +100%

Status effect ‘Fear’ resistance +60%

All stats increase by 20% when there are undead among the enemies

Additional damage +10% when attacking undead

Damage taken -10% when hit by undead

‘Though it’s slightly lower in performance compared to the 〈Prayer for the Trinity〉 bestowed by the Pope, it’s permanently applied with no expiry. Essentially, it’s way more incredible… Holy attribute resistance has reached 150%. Against all Holy attribute users in Middle Earth, I would have a guaranteed 100% win rate in PVP! Moreover, with these insane stat points and the bishop ordination eligibility? What is this skill? This is just… insane!’

Skill 〈Ahlo’s Mace〉.

The God is not always benevolent.

“Kehm, Master Kay?”

“Yes! Yes?”

Hyein nudged Kijung, who was grinning broadly.

Having not listened to the Pope’s story, he had no grasp of the situation. Hyein gave him a hint.

“His Holiness is asking about the appearance of Ha Leeha.”

Hyein smiled faintly.

Kijung felt grateful for him again.

If anyone made the greatest contribution in the recent battle against Pyrot-Cocri, it was probably Leeha. Nevertheless, he didn’t get to participate in this reward. How could he also be rewarded?

Kijung instantly understood Hyein’s intention.

“Yes, Your Holiness. Ha Leeha appeared with his dragon partner… utilizing a new weapon, he sniped Pyrot-Cocri with such precision that her recovery became impossible, allowing me to finish her off with a final blow while she was in a near-death state.”

“Oh, so that’s what happened.”

“Yes, without Ha Leeha’s assistance… it’s quite likely that this mission ‘Turn Undead’ would have failed.”

Leeha’s image was impressed upon the Pope.

Hyein subtly indicated this to Kijung as he was the only one capable of creating that opportunity.

“Ha Leeha has been a great help to us since the New Continent. In Kaztor’s… matter as well, and now with the discovery of Pyrot-Cocri. Hmmm…”

Pope Urban II propped his chin in thought, but his deliberation did not last long.

How did Leeha’s ‘score’ measure up in the system?

“Can you ask Ha Leeha if he might be willing to visit the Papacy?”

“Huh? Of course! But why…”

“Would it not be fitting to offer our thanks in the name of the Papacy to someone who has embodied the love of the deity?”

The answer was almost already given.

Listening to the Pope, Kijung gave a wide grin.

No one among the group who had confronted Pyrot-Cocri, including Hyein, expressed any disagreement or discomfort.

“Of course, we must also reward you heroes as well! There’s a warehouse stocked with various items, so please choose something useful.”

The Pope, subtly implying additional rewards for Leeha, immediately mentioned ‘material’ compensation.

Raphaela clenched her fist and exclaimed, “Yes!” while Rubini watched her in amazement.

As everyone started moving towards the warehouse, Kijung spoke up again.

“Oh! Your Holiness!”

“Hmm? What is it, Exorcism Cardinal?”

“Well, if it’s not too much trouble, may I ask something?”

“Of course. There’s no need for such formality.”

When Pope Urban II responded with a smile, Kijung scratched his head awkwardly.

Was it okay to ask this?

It could potentially be an exceedingly rude question. But where else could he find the answer to this dilemma?

In the vaults of the Papacy, there would be shoes that drastically increased agility, bracelets enhancing ice attributes, and numerous crowns or staffs augmenting divine power.

But how useful could such items be in the future?

“Simply increasing attack or defense power… is meaningless.”

Kijung had been pondering this continuously after logging out.

What did he need to supplement?

From the battle against Pyrot-Cocri’s clone, he realized that personal abilities were useless on their own.

More than anything, without a decisive blow, confronting the Demon King’s Fragments was practically impossible, Kijung thought.

So then?

“Is there by any chance the ‘Holy Water of Ahlo’s Blood’?”

The Pope seemed surprised by Kijung’s request.

However, the reaction was much better than the Cardinal who staggered backward in hesitation.

“Th-That… Your Holiness! This must not be done! Not this!”

Before the Pope could respond, the Cardinal intervened.

Pope Urban II looked at Kijung seriously, and Kijung did not avoid his gaze.

“Your Holiness! That… Ex-Exorcism Cardinal! Please retract your request! It’s something we only have half a bottle left of in the current Papacy! It cannot be replaced— no matter how, even for the Exorcism Cardinal—”

“Shii… Master Kay.”

Pope Urban II calmed the Cardinal and called Kijung.

Though his movement and voice were gentle, they carried enough power to fill the Pope’s large office.

“Yes.”

“You deem it necessary?”

Urban II asked.

“Yes.”

Kijung replied.

“Then we’ll provide it.”

Urban II answered without a second of hesitation.

The Cardinal looked almost on the verge of tears, glancing between the Pope and Kijung, while the users around Kijung revealed surprised expressions.

None knew exactly what kind of item it was.

However, everyone had heard its name at least once.

“Master Kay? That’s—the one Petyr mentioned…”

“K, will that suffice? It seems valuable but—”

“This would be the best choice.”

Kijung replied with a smile to Raphaela and Hyein’s questions.

Ram Hwajung, having already figured something out, nodded. The reason for Kijung seeking the holy water was simple.

“Since there’s half a bottle left… dipping a bullet into it and pulling it back should be okay, right? It won’t entirely disappear, will it?”

“Wahaha! Truly, Master Kay is magnificent!”

Pei Wu laughed heartily.
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Leeha and the expedition, who had been running non-stop towards the Eastern New Continent, paused briefly around that time.

They had moved throughout the night, and not only were their stamina and physical strength depleted, but they were also mentally exhausted. However, what shocked them more was the alarm that spread through the entire system.

“S+ grade… did you say?”

“Where on earth did this come from— Damn it! S+ grade!”

“Ha, is it the quest Ha Leeha mentioned? The one where he went to take down Pyrot-Cocri?”

“… The Holy Knight. After the Cardinal…”

Kidd, Luger, Fernand, and Alexander each reacted differently to the alarm.

However, Leeha didn’t have the leisure to answer their amazement or questions.

‘Goddamn, Kijung! An S+ grade… The first S+ grade in Middle Earth!’

Leeha himself was extremely moved.

He felt like he could even shed tears.

Lying in the Middle Earth connection device, Leeha thought that tears might have actually flowed from his real body.

But the feeling of being moved did not last long.

‘That rascal, what about me? Surely he thought of me too!’

Leeha contemplated complaining to Kijung but ultimately refrained.

‘I shouldn’t ruin such a historical moment.’

Thanks to Leeha’s unintended consideration, Kijung could closely monitor accomplishments and think rationally. As a result, Leeha also earned item acquisition rights, although he was unaware of it at that moment.

“Dang it… If only I had stayed in the East! I could have claimed that achievement!”

“You, who almost received a papal access ban?”

“Shut up! That was the previous Pope! The current Pope would have recognized my skills!”


“It is indeed regrettable. Pyrot-Cocri, the Pope…”

As Luger and Kidd bickered, Alexander showed his feelings.

Even he coveted the S+ grade that he had yet to achieve.

Even if he captured Pyrot-Cocri’s duplicate again on the field, could he earn the S+ grade achievement?

‘If it’s unrelated to the Papacy, it’s impossible. Without a quest-giver… What’s left is to completely annihilate the original.’

Alexander’s calculations already came up with a ‘NO’, and thus he felt even more regretful.

Bailephus sighed as he watched the fuss made by the users.

“They are underestimating Pyrot-Cocri.”

“Hmm? What do you mean, hyung?”

“Alexander, even assuming it’s my partner, I can say for certain. The Demon King’s Fragments are not to be taken lightly.”

“I am not underestimating it. But—”

“Your minor greed… could hinder the execution of justice. The same goes for you, Luger.”

Bailephus’s sharp reprimand left Alexander and Luger speechless.

They knew very well how foolish it was to get impatient over the S+ grade achievement while struggling with just one Bluebeard, who was the ‘same kind of entity’ as Pyrot-Cocri.

“Uhm, Bailephus-nim?”

“What is it, Ha Leeha?”

“If Pyrot-Cocri is essentially awakened… and Bluebeard has regained all his strength.”

Leeha suddenly recalled something after witnessing Bailephus’s serious demeanor.

“Hm.”

“Wouldn’t that make Ghibrid the weakest of the Demon King’s Fragments?”


Leeha thought this because he had seen Pyrot-Cocri’s real form.

Though she had lost her loyal servant, if we assume Chiyou = Bathory is still alive, then Bluebeard is almost complete.

And Pyrot-Cocri?

In Leeha’s view, awakening her, who already had sufficient strength, was just a matter of time.

‘Even though Bahamut is guarding her… it would be tough if Bluebeard pulls out Tiamat Card.’

What if the metal dragon Clan could no longer guard the entrance to the city of Fecla?

The ‘near-complete’ her would awaken as she is.

Then what about the remaining Demon King’s Fragments?

What would happen to Ghibrid?

“Indeed.”

“You mean the next target is that.”

“Hoho… This time, I won’t yield to anyone. I’ll crush everything, even if it’s you guys.”

The users’ eyes sparkled once again at those words.

Despite this, Bailephus remained calm. He even had a faint smile.

“It’s a thought worthy of Ha Leeha, but it’s wrong.”

“Yes?”

“Ghibrid… you are underestimating him. His body, called 『Chimera’s Nest』… is not just an ordinary physical form.”

Bailephus’s statement brought back silence among the users.

Especially Luger’s face contorted. He was the only one among them who had seen Ghibrid’s ‘unordinary body.’

“Does he possess abilities similar to Pyrot-Cocri? She seemed to heal herself using her duplicate and the bones of the undead…”


“Ghibrid is even beyond that. In the first place, he doesn’t have the concept of duplicates and the body. He is a collective existence. All is Ghibrid and Ghibrid is all. Both physical attacks and most magic are ineffective.”

Fire attribute works against Chimeras.

Manticores possessed exceptional resistance to physical attacks, nullifying most non-piercing strikes. This implied, conversely, that they were vulnerable to piercing.

Every creature created by Ghibrid had at least one weakness.

Did this mean that Ghibrid had none?

“Then… how should we attack it?”

“You must strike Ghibrid itself—everything and one. Even our Lord struggled against the Demon King’s Fragment known as Ghibrid. Never take it lightly.”

Even Bahamut found it challenging.

Leeha felt newfound respect for the valor shown by the Stars Unit in holding back Ghibrid and the Chimeras.

“Haha, but don’t worry too much. The Lord, and all of us, will find an answer.”

“Exactly! We’ve had enough rest. Time to move! Kaztor won’t wait for us!”

Bailephus laughed to uplift the mood, and Fernand energetically declared.

While the other users mulled over their thoughts, Leeha had a hypothesis.

‘Platinum Dragon’s attacks… though varied in patterns, they were fundamentally magical in nature.’

If neither magic nor physical force worked, what method could attack it?

Damage against a being that was everything and one,

—Hehe… Ghibrid, huh.—

A low laugh echoed in Leeha’s mind.

Though the voice was full of bravado, at this moment, it brought joy to Leeha.

‘So… it is possible, right?’

—You won’t know until you try, contractor. I, too, want to taste its blood.—

Black Bass’s confident voice bolstered Leeha’s thoughts.

“Let’s go! Who knows, we might get an S+ if we catch Kaztor first? The first to catch it wins~”

Leeha laughed cheerfully and followed Fernand.

“No way, I won’t let you take it. Blowing you both away would be easier.”

“Likewise here.”

“I will be the one to judge and execute.”

They couldn’t just watch their rival take the lead.

Leeha’s presence encouraged everyone.

* * *

The New Continent Eastern Expedition set off again in the morning.

Not much happened until after noon and early afternoon.

“Kahaha! How’s that? I got this one!”

“There’s another one behind it. A different type.”

“What? Impossible!”

Luger growled at Leeha’s words. Kidd answered him.

“… Maybe you need glasses, Luger.”

“Shut up!”

New monsters appeared now and then, but Leeha, Luger, and Kidd dealt with them competitively, keeping Alexander and Fernand from being bored.

Even during Luger and Kidd’s banter, Leeha kept an eye on Black Bass.

By the afternoon, they had defeated at least three new types of monsters.

‘As expected. Common monsters don’t count.’

The charging rate remained at 49.99%.

Just as Black Bass had said, Leeha also felt that this was essentially the “real eighth quest.”

Something special.

They had to catch something even Black Bass didn’t know about.

Leeha wanted to finish off Kaztor quickly and rescue Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle.

‘Even after obtaining the Arcane Sniper, there would still be many concerns…’

At least one thing could be certain. That his path wouldn’t be bound by Middle Earth’s system flow.

And when that time comes?

‘I’ll have to give Ghibrid a taste of its own medicine.’

Achieving a charging rate of over 50%, in other words, clearing the eighth quest.

As Leeha resolved anew, Fernand came to a halt.

—Everyone, get down!

Seeing him almost crawl on the ground, even Bailephus dropped flat.

No one mocked the Hwangryong.

—There are figures gathering up ahead. Five, I estimate.

—Five? Did you just say five?

It was Browless who first responded to Fernand’s scouting report.

As the trembling voice of their mentor resonated, Leeha, Luger, and Kidd felt an ominous foreboding.

“How could there be five?”

“There’s no way Faust could have moved faster than us. Ha Leeha also clearly said that only Kaztor and Chiyou left—”

“Stupid… or maybe it’s good after all. Five would be just right.”

“Huh? What are you talking about, Luger?”

Kaztor and Chiyou. Two people.

Then, who were the other three?

Luger whispered as if gnashing his teeth. Despite saying it was good, his face looked utterly despairing.

“Brown, Elizabeth, Arcane Sniper.”

“No, no way! Wait a minute! That doesn’t make sense! That means there are five people together!”

Leeha immediately objected.

Fernand had clearly mentioned there were five figures gathered.

How could such a combination be possible? As Luger instinctively realized, Kidd also understood everything.

Perhaps Browless’s uneasy voice was the hint.

“… Does that mean we are one step too late?”

Just as Leeha was about to oppose Kidd and Luger’s thoughts, Browless stood up, blatantly disobeying Fernand’s order.

“Oh, no, Browless!”

Fernand hurriedly stood up and tried to catch him, but it was impossible to keep up with the former 『Rapidfire』.

“Bailephus!”

“Hm!”

Alexander and Bailephus reacted immediately.

Browless shook off everyone and dashed out.

“Commander!”

Fibiel’s capital, aelstock, housed the 〈Brown Bess Musket Academy〉.

There wasn’t a trace of Browless in the academy’s name. Even at the moment of its founding, Browless had been left out.

Since then, Browless had never changed the academy’s name.

Through the times when his comrades went missing and various rumors pointed fingers at him, he maintained the name 〈Brown Bess〉.

Browless, the 『Rapidfire』, who moved strictly behind the scenes for his comrades.

Leeha, Luger, and Kidd thought they understood the desperation of one of the Three Musketeers.

But it was mere arrogance.

“Brown! Beth! You guys!”

The desperation held by one of the Three Musketeers, who had to endure over 20 years of separation, echoed in the air.

But what responded to Browless’s call was not a welcoming greeting.

Taaan─────────…!

A gunshot rang out.

Browless’s running stopped.

* * *

“Directoooor! 〈Platinum Shield〉!”

Leeha was the first to rush out. It wasn’t an act driven by emotion alone.

Was he able to block the ‘opponent’s’ attack?

No, did the opponent actually ‘attack’? He had to confirm that.

And he had to save Browless.

“Argh!”

Taking a step forward wasn’t easy.

One shot in the head, one in the heart, and one in the thigh.

────, ────, ────!

Belated gunshots made Leeha’s head spin.

Although the shield absorbed all kinetic energy, each hit felt like a blow pushing his body back.

And then,

The effect of the Platinum Shield has been nullified.

The attacks were so overwhelming that the shield was nullified with just three rounds.

“No way! This is a spell cast by Bahamut—how can it be nullified in just three shots?”

Although short-lived, this shield had withstood attacks from high-level monsters.

The Platinum Shield was supposed to be an invincible defense, one that wouldn’t leave a scratch on Leeha unless its duration expired.

With the shield gone, Leeha crawled almost on all fours towards Browless, and his comrades couldn’t just stand and watch.
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“Damn it, damn it! 〈Acht-Acht〉! Kidd! Provide cover!”

“…”

Luger immediately raised his Cobalt Python.

He intended to use his skills right away and bombard the direction where the gunfire was coming from, but his attack needed preparation time. Therefore, he needed someone to support his attack, but the “Rapidfire” did not comply with Luger’s words.

“Kidd! Provide cover—”

—, —, —, —, —, —, —…

“—Argh! That bastard! He’s not even shooting at me!”

Instead of providing cover, he began to engage in clear counter-fire. Kidd scrambled from his position while shooting continuously.

If Luger’s and Leeha’s reactions were intense, how would the true successor of 『Rapidfire』, who particularly followed Browless, have felt?

“Director─────────!”

Kidd’s voice was calling out to Browless, but his determination was directed toward those who had shot Browless.

At least, it was clear that Kidd was different from usual.

His voice carried a killing intent.

“Wait, please! You can’t just rush out like that!”

“Bailephus! Prepare!”

“No, Alexander. First, we save the human.”

“Hmm?”

Bailephus chose a different course of action.

Meanwhile, Leeha finally managed to reach Browless’s side.

The fortunate thing was that the attacks aimed at Leeha had stopped. Even though his posture was lowered, the firing angle surely existed.


Nevertheless, they did not attack?

Even in such a hurried moment, Leeha didn’t overlook this fact.

“Director! Director! Are you alright?”

“… How could this be…?”

“Director! Are you hurt anywhere?”

Leeha hastily raised a potion, but there were no signs of injury on Browless’s body.

“I used a shield! But it broke in one hit, indicating that the 『enemy』s attack is not trivial. Bring the human here immediately, Ha Leeha!”

“In such a short span—”

“This is troublesome. I intervened unnecessarily! Speak quickly, golden lizard!”

It was thanks to Bailephus’s reflexive action just before Browless moved. The Three Musketeers became awkwardly silent, but the die was already cast.

The moment Browless exposed himself, the opponents would have recognized their presence; hiding further would not have much meaning.

“Kaztor and all, then let’s fire the first shot—”

“No! No, Luger!”

“Whoa! Director!?”

Browless, barely supported by Leeha, intervened just as Luger was about to fire.

As Luger’s body wavered, the “Acht-Acht” that had enveloped the Cobalt Python weakened and soon disappeared.

“What are you doing!”

“Not yet. It’s not time yet. Brown and Bess are on that side. We can’t attack now!”

“They are the ones who shot at the director.”

“No, no. That’s impossible.”


Both Luger and Kidd, who had been spitting fire from Crimson Gecko, had arrived, but Browless shook his head urgently.

“Director… but it’s the truth. They broke through Bailephus’s shield with a strong attack. You know this is not possible without someone at Brown or Elizabeth’s level.”

Leeha shared the same frustration. It was true they had attacked.

Given the numbers, Kaztor, Chiyou, and their group had shot at Browless and himself.

But why would they do that?

And why did they stop attacking after the shield was gone?

“… There’s a reason. There definitely is.”

Browless addressed the very point that Leeha had been pondering.

Alexander, who was about to move with Bailephus, also came back to Browless’s side immediately.

No matter the reason for them being together, once they were, Browless’s leadership was necessary.

“Any good ideas?”

“Dragon, you need to distract them. And… if our disciples can divert Kaztor and the Vampire Queen’s attention… I’ll try to persuade them. Then, they won’t shoot at you, dragon.”

“The battle that took place at the Demon King’s hideout was different. And remember, among them… is a Dark Elf.”

Even though Browless made a desperate request, Bailephus remained somewhat skeptical.

During the previous battle when Toon was resurrecting, they had faced interference from Brown, Elizabeth, and Kyle at the Demon King’s hideout.

All present knew that with shields, barriers, and evasion maneuvers of a considerable level, they could hold out for a while.

However, Bailephus referred to the last person as the crucial problem.

“Kaztor being with him… The ‘Arcane Bullet’ might be coming at us.”

It was possible to speculate that Kyle had some issue preventing him from using Arcane Bullet. However, wasn’t that a problem only when Kyle was alone?

What if Kaztor helped him?


Kaztor was the very person who turned Kyle into Arcane Sniper and threatened Elizabeth and Brown.

“Damn it, if they fire Arcane Bullet, there’s no answer.”

“It’s highly likely. No matter how ancient gold the dragon is… it can’t dodge it.”

It was at that moment when Leeha’s eyes lit up amid the whispers of Luger and Kidd.

“Let’s do it.”

“What did you say?”

“Let’s follow the Headmaster’s plan. Bailephus and Alexander should draw the shooters’ attention over there. And Kidd, Luger, you two focus on Chiyou. Fernand, keep tracking the location and relay instructions through whispers.”

“… So, you’re saying you’ll block Kaztor alone.”

“No need to block him forever, right? Just until Director gets near Elizabeth and Brown…”

It was an operation requiring a precise plan.

If the timing or positions of their appearances overlapped, everyone could be in danger.

But with the possibility of Kaztor and the targets disappearing if they delayed further, there was no more time to waste.

Click.

Leeha inserted a magazine into the Black Bass.

Watching this, Browless pulled his hat down firmly.

“Let’s do this.”

Browless’s one sentence was enough.

They quickly dispersed.

***

“Impressive, impressive! To incapacitate that Browless with just three shots!”

Chiyou trembled.

She wasn’t surprised even when Browless came running out shouting from afar.

She had already received all reports from Faust.

“Alexander and the dragon, Kidd, Luger, Fernand, and the NPC that fires guns. I already figured out it was Browless… but that fool, how could he miss Ha Leeha?”

But it was different when Ha Leeha came out to rescue Browless. She opened the friend window and checked Faust’s login status.

“If he did that just to mess with me… let’s see.”

He was alive.

As Alexander feared, he used the ‘Play Dead’ skill to escape undetected by all NPCs.

Chiyou, who had just broken through the Platinum Shield and awaited Leeha’s death, heard no more gunshots.

Yet, she couldn’t afford to shout, urging them to shoot quickly. In that place, she was the ‘lowest authority’.

The ‘highest authority’, who currently dominated the situation, opened his mouth.

“What’s going on? I clearly told you to shoot those two.”

“… You said to incapacitate them. I shot both Leeha and Browless. They won’t come at us anymore.”

“Hah! Ridiculous. Are you confident with just those bullets?”

At Kaztor’s words, Elizabeth lightly lowered her head. It was not Elizabeth who refuted him.

“Because Lisa’s heart would be in it.”

“Heart?”

Brown, resting his hand on Elizabeth’s shoulder, glared at Kaztor.

No longer using sweet nicknames like ‘Honey’. Brown’s determination was reflected in the nickname for Elizabeth.

Elizabeth looked at Brown’s face.

Brown continued speaking.

“It’s our wish… that you don’t come any closer and just go back… Browless would’ve understood.”

The old camaraderie of the Three Musketeers made them this tightly knit. Chiyou pondered about the settings of NPCs for a moment.

And then, she thought of the cunning dark elf who was set not to be swayed by ‘this atmosphere’.

“You’re talking nonsense. If you don’t shoot, there’s another way.”

“Stop it!”

No matter what they said, Kaztor immediately turned around.

Brown hastily grabbed his shoulder, but Kaztor just frowned back at him.

“…Caught?”

“Kuh, ugh, I will let go. But stop. Don’t touch Kyle.”

“You must already know that there’s nothing you can touch or do. Soon, your children will become uncontrollable. Soon… ha, yes, soon. That’s how it will be.”

“No! That’s not true.”

“Well, well. You came near Saur Land but couldn’t go in and roamed around here… It means Toon’s kind didn’t accept you. You know well that everything ended at that moment.”

Kaztor said very kindly.

Hearing his sarcastic words, Brown clenched his fists tightly. However, this time, Elizabeth stopped him.

“We’ll surely find a way. We’ll break free from your wretched curse.”

“It’s not a curse, Elizabeth… it’s a blessing.”

Kaztor didn’t back down even a single word.

Chiyou was watching this entire conversation and scene.

From the moment Kaztor had first discovered Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle until now.

Perhaps at this point, Chiyou knew the most about Kyle, the ‘Arcane Sniper’, even more than Leeha and the Three Musketeers.

She was so immersed in ecstasy that she could no longer maintain her expression.

‘Just one word… with just one word, he suppressed everyone. I’ve been entranced by this thing called Arcane Bullet, but the NPCs here are no joke either. In this case… what should I do?’

As she quickly scanned the NPCs around her, Chiyou’s brain whirred like it was on fire.

She had only one mission given by Bluebeard.

‘Secure Arcane Sniper. As long as I am the Vampire Queen… I cannot defy the will of Bluebeard.’

But performing Bluebeard’s mission was also problematic.

Could she secure Arcane Sniper in this situation?

Perhaps she could coax Kaztor and Kyle sufficiently, take them to Bluebeard, and in the meantime, turn Kyle into a vampire?

‘No, no… that’s not right.’

This must be what Bluebeard thought.

Since Chiyou had deduced the NPC’s plan, she had gained the leisure to think over his strategy.

‘What if I team up with Kaztor instead…? Dethrone Bluebeard… Kuhuhu, uhuhut!’

Enjoying a laugh she couldn’t voice out loud, Chiyou was suddenly poked in the side by Kaztor.

“Cut!”

“Is this situation funny? What are you laughing at?”

“Ah, nothing, Kaztor-nim. I was just slightly impressed by your ingenious strategy.”

“Hah, such flattery… Get a grip. As long as those guys are following us, especially that ‘Ha Leeha’, it’s not going to be easy to shake them off—Craah!”

Before Kaztor could finish his words, golden light exploded.

『Kyaaaaaaahhh—!』

“So, they’re coming out like that. Hey, prepare yourselves!”

Bailephus’s roar echoed widely.

Elizabeth and Brown could no longer defy the enraged Kaztor.

Not yet able to fully utilize her abilities in broad daylight, Chiyou had no choice but to obey Kaztor’s orders.

* * *

『〈Absolute Barrier〉, 〈Protect from Normal Missiles〉!』

After casting barrier magic with a relatively short duration and increasing resistance to all physical long-range attacks, Bailephus, with its immense base defense of dragon scales, still didn’t let his guard down.

———, ———, ———!

He had to be that cautious.

『Ugh, be careful, Alexander!』

At the initial acceleration stage, the speed was not yet stable.

But it wasn’t exactly slow either, and knowing their shooting skills, they were deliberately performing evasion maneuvers like rolling, yet Elizabeth and Brown didn’t miss their “gnats.”

Alexander also clung flat against Bailephus’s body, surveying the ground.

“Hmm. Perhaps… this is the best opportunity to test it out, friend.”

He grasped his spear.

The motion carried his will to sweep away the enemies on the ground right away, but Bailephus restrained him.

『… Not yet. At least, it’s better if we link up with Ha Leeha’s strategy before we proceed.』

“Of course. I am merely preparing for the worst.”

They shouldn’t act recklessly.

Above all, their current goal wasn’t to assassinate Brown, Elizabeth, or Kyle.
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“If only we could make them our allies… we would gain even more power.”

As long as the possibility of making them allies remained, Alexander did not intend to move.

『On—』

Kwooooaaaaaaaa──────!

“Kch!”

Elizabeth’s attack was followed by Brown’s bombardment, which began at the perfect moment.

『Hit』 and 『Pierce』 were first aimed at the dragon, and the fact that Bailephus could withstand it was according to Leeha’s plan.

『I hope they hurry up.』

“You’re right.”

Unlike the base of the demon, the genuine attacks of the two NPCs had a destructive power that made even the number one in the rankings feel uneasy.

─────────────…….

When Bailephus launched evasive maneuvers in response to their unease, explosions finally started spreading on the ground as well.

“Kahahaha! It feels so good to strike directly! I’ll leave the rest to you, Kidd!”

“… Do you think I’m just a cleanup specialist? But— in the sense that it feels good…”

Woosh—!

Kidd swept aside his coat.

As soon as he used the 〈Acht-Acht〉 skill, he instantly canceled it, and Luger brushed past him for concealment.

Luger and Kidd exchanged glances for a moment.

Kidd was smiling.

“I feel the same way. 〈High Noon〉.”


Bang──────……!

The exhilaration of finally being able to shoot at Chiyou!

Though both had suffered numerous times at the hands of Chiyou and the Shinobigumi as well as Bluebeard faction, they had rarely had the chance for real revenge.

Although the situation was urgent, they couldn’t let this opportunity slip by.

Kidd’s Crimson Geckos continuously spewed fire.

Luger watched Kidd’s attack from behind a rock.

‘Did he increase his agility? Or is it a skill-based attack speed buff? The mere act of shooting already far surpasses something like Eighteen Panning.’

The series of actions—drawing the revolver, cocking the hammer, and pulling the trigger—were all faster than when using their usual skills.

“How arrogant! Do you think you can defeat me just because you’re an outsider? 〈Dance of the Valkyries〉, 〈Rain of Blood〉!”

After using the skill to read the attack, Chiyou temporarily distanced herself from Kaztor, Elizabeth, and Brown.

The attacks with piercing and explosive attributes were targeting her.

If she stayed close, the area attacks would certainly affect others, especially Kaztor, who would surely rebuke her if caught in the crossfire.

Swooooosh―!

Charging towards Kidd and Luger, she utilized a unique vampire skill.

They looked like mere blood droplets, but their destructive power was far from low.

Moreover, the speed at which they darted towards the targets designated by Chiyou was staggeringly fast!

If the projectiles were small with a wide range and great speed?

The skill would be almost impossible to evade.

‘No… it’s not that he doesn’t need to use 〈Eighteen Panning〉. He deliberately chose not to.’

Luger looked at Kidd and purely admired his quick response.


The traditional skills promised incredibly fast firing rates but limited mobility.

Although one could move immediately after canceling or ending a skill, the minor delay could still cause personal harm.

But if one used a skill that solely maximized ‘attack speed’, and handled the aiming, firing, and even dodging all on their own?

“Impossible. Hup!”

Kidd moved swiftly as if dancing.

The coat flapped around him, but even the near-area attack 〈Rain of Blood〉 couldn’t touch a corner of his coat.

While evading at such high speed, Kidd was still accurately firing bullets at Chiyou.

“Kahahaha! What is this, are you two going to dance together?”

Luger’s remark was apt.

Compared to Kidd’s movement, Chiyou was also quick but how was she?

Her skill 〈Dance of the Valkyries〉!

Using a skill that read where Kidd would shoot and when the attack would reach that point a few seconds in advance, she also dodged the bullets by moving gracefully.

Both of them, executing rapid attacks and evading equally fast, found themselves in a stalemate, unable to divert their entire focus from each other.

“In that case, I will be the accompanist. 〈Acht-Acht〉!”

This meant that it was the perfect time for Luger to use his skill.

The battlefield quickly formed a situation where Kidd and Luger were jointly facing Chiyou, and Alexander and Bailephus were evading Elizabeth and Brown’s attacks while engaging in a strategic tug-of-war to keep their focus solely on them.

At least until now, everything was going according to Leeha’s plan.

“Troublesome fellows, indeed. First, let’s deal with the rogues on the ground.”

Kaztor glanced around and then walked towards Chiyou. He raised his hand to attack Luger and Kidd at that moment.

Boom!


Kaztor’s scream was drowned out by the loud gunshot echoing in the air.

“It’s done, director! Let’s move out!”

“Are you okay to move directly, Leeha? The advantage of 『Accuracy』 is that it works at a distance—”

“That bloody Dark Elf won’t make much of a difference whether I’m near or far!”

Leeha started moving with Browless. The only defensive skill he had was the 〈Expert’s Force Barrier〉. It would be difficult to withstand even a single attack from the enemy with it.

‘But I have Jellypong. If Headmaster Browless is attacked again, it will be dangerous this time. I must prevent him from… dying.’

Although the advantage of sniping would be lost, there were times when something greater had to be protected. Leeha’s Jellypong chased after Browless rapidly as he started to flank.

—–

“Argh! What the hell is this!?”

Kaztor looked at his stomach. Black smoke was billowing out from the spot where Leeha’s bullet had pierced.

“Damn it, recovery isn’t working— Why!? Damn brat! 〈Claw of Madness〉!”

Shwack!

The skill that belonged to a small-scale area of attack, claws slashing wildly, flew towards Leeha.

“Jellypong!”

『Squee squee!』

Leeha was able to deal with it sufficiently. The speed of three-dimensional maneuvering was much faster than typical movement, and more importantly, Kaztor had shouted the skill’s name.

‘Up until now, he only used a wave of his hand to activate skills.’

The relaxed demeanor from before was completely gone now! This meant, undeniably, that the previous shot had inflicted significant damage on Kaztor.

—Heh-heh-heh… Is it that Dark Elf from before?—

“How is it? Can you manage?”

Leeha wanted to use the 〈White Reaper〉, but he didn’t have the luxury of time, which was frustrating for him. He had to rely solely on the additional effect of the 〈Awakened Black Bass〉!

And Leeha was not betrayed by his belief. The severe pain felt by Kaztor seemed to be due to no other reason.

— he moved his life force elsewhere, but he can’t escape my smell… As long as he is a fundamental being, even if it’s Upper Earth, I can follow.—

Leeha momentarily got chills from his still “chuunibyou” way of speaking.

“Not sure what you mean but…”

Hoo…

He was moving quickly. Leeha wanted to aim his second shot between the eyebrows, but it was difficult to pinpoint a fatal spot in this drastically different environment from the first sniper shot.

‘The target point is—’

Hah…

The area with the widest hit surface.

“Let’s focus. 〈Mana Vaporizing Shot〉.”

Boom!

Leeha aimed for the torso. Even during this, he subtly adjusted the barrel direction to aim towards the heart as much as possible, driven purely by a sniper’s instinct.

Argh!

Kaztor screamed again.

“Good! I knew it would work this time too!”

“Impressive. Seeing it a second time is clear now. Leeha, you’ve finally… activated the Black Bass?”

Browless asked, seeing Leeha’s smile.

“Huh?”

“There was a time Bess mentioned it. 〈Just activating it is enough. You don’t need to open it any further.〉… You now remind me of Bess from back then.”

Activation.

Leeha realized this was Elizabeth’s term referring to the 〈Awakened Black Bass〉.

But what did she mean by not needing to open it any further?

‘Did she clear only up to the practical eighth quest? Did even Elizabeth not reach the ninth quest, the full 100% charge? Or did she only awaken it without surpassing the 50% limit?’

At the very least, acknowledging the gun allowed for the possibility of becoming one with the 〈White Reaper〉. Thus, the basis, or quests, added up to nine.

What if the ninth was certainly the last? What if there was nothing beyond it?

There was no need to open it any further, which meant that the Black Vest recharge rate wasn’t filled to 100%.

“Hehe, thank you for seeing it that way! But there’s still a long way to go. At least you’ve uncovered more secrets than I have. So, let’s hurry up and―”

Shwaa―!

Leeha and Browless increased their speed even more.

“―ask my excellent senior!”

The distance between Elizabeth and Brown was getting closer. Meanwhile, Chiyou was still preoccupied fighting Kidd and Luger.

As for Elizabeth and Brown?

They had temporarily ceased firing at Bailephus.

“Krrrr, what are you doing! Kill those approaching, those coming at us, Elizabeth! Brown!”

“……..”

Kaztor barely steadied his staggering body as he issued orders to them.

Elizabeth’s face contorted terribly.

Blood flowed from Brown’s tightly clenched lips.

Kaztor briefly looked at them and then turned around. Another figure, deeply hooded, was still waiting behind him.

“Do I need to use your sons to get this done? No, perhaps that would be better. Rather, Ha Leeha with Arcane Bullet’s―”

“I got it! Got it already! We will!”

Elizabeth raised her rifle.

The muzzle was aimed squarely at Leeha and Browless.

“…….handle it, right!”

“Hurry, I’ll recover for a moment… if you can’t handle it by then― Damn it, Ha Leeha must have drained all the mana! Shit, shit, 〈Maze Dimension〉!”

Kaztor berated Elizabeth once more before using his skill.

The air before him wavered.

It wasn’t mana he was using but another form of magic utilizing demonic energy.

Between Leeha and Kaztor stood Elizabeth and Brown. They positioned Kyle in between for shielding and seemed to be preparing another form of attack using demonic energy upfront.

Elizabeth watched all this unfold and could no longer resist.

“Hu, hu, hu.”

Tears fell from her eyes.

She was so agitated that her jaw trembled, and tears flowed incessantly from her eyes.

Nonetheless, her gun barrel did not waver even slightly.

“Liza.”

Brown’s voice was heavy. Elizabeth did not look back at him.

“Darling, less will probably never forgive me for this, will he?”

“…….”

Brown did not reply.

Huuu….

Elizabeth moved her index finger.

BANG────────…..!

The gunshot rang out.

Elizabeth’s long hair fluttered.

* * *

The feeling of the wind rustling her hair, the slight sensation quickly made Elizabeth lift her head with a start.

“Ah…..!? What…..”

Her index finger had only pulled about a third of the trigger, not enough to discharge the shot.

So, what was that gunshot just now?

“Kaztoooooooor!”

Leeha’s voice echoed from a distance.

“…… Lisa! Behind you―”

“No way!”

Brown and Elizabeth hurriedly turned around.

A few steps behind the hooded Kyle, Kaztor walked out.

“Cough… Cough……”

The air around him vibrated intensely.

With each vibration, black smoke poured out and dispersed from the ‘new wound site’, as well as his abdomen.

He couldn’t even manage to stop his own bleeding.

His entire arm’s neural structure was destroyed by the 12.7×99mm bullet that perfectly pierced from his left shoulder to his right.

“Lisa, that wound site……. That’s―”

At Brown’s words, Elizabeth quickly assessed Kaztor.

She understood.

In a straight-line trajectory where the target was vertical? When using a rifle to inflict damage, there’s only one way to achieve it.

“A, curved shot! Ha Leeha executed― 〈Curved Shot〉!”

TL’s Corner:

Finally!!!
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The Curve Shot learned from Elizabeth.

Leeha watched as Elizabeth aimed at him.

He also saw Kaztor use some kind of skill and then hide behind Kyle.

Before Elizabeth pulled the trigger, Leeha thought he should first eliminate the source of trouble.

‘Even though the “Mana Vaporizing Shot” worked, he still used a skill… Was I overthinking?’

Leeha had to doubt himself.

Due to that strange skill, his attacks might just end up floating in the air. In that case, wasn’t it better to aim at Elizabeth’s gun to make her miss?

But Leeha couldn’t take such a gamble.

So, he decided and acted on shooting a curving bullet towards Kaztor, and fortunately, it brought about a good result.

“Brown! Bess! You fools! You, you foolish friends!”

“Senior!”

Browless and Leeha quickly approached them.

Brown rapidly approached Kaztor and supported Kyle, while Elizabeth ran towards Browless.

“Less! Less!”

“Bess! You fool, why! Why did you do that—without even telling me! Brown! Brown!”

After hugging Elizabeth, Browless also embraced Brown, who came over.

Brown, holding up Kyle, joined in the hug with Browless.

Elizabeth held them both and cried her heart out.

Finally, the previous generation Three Musketeers had reunited.

『Pierce』 Brown.


『Accuracy』 Elizabeth.

『Rapidfire』, Browless. Seeing them, Leeha slowly lifted his head. He thought for sure that tears would be flowing from his body connected to the Middle Earth terminal.

* * *

After their emotional reunion, Browless hurriedly spoke with red-rimmed eyes.

“What happened? Why did you come all the way here—Ah, is it the son you mentioned before? Can I see his face once—”

“No!”

As he attempted to unveil Kyle’s hood, Elizabeth stopped him.

Seeing her shake her head, Browless was so startled he couldn’t continue his actions.

“Sorry, less. But we don’t have time. Was it Leeha-ssi? Are you able to shoot Kaztor?”

“Yes? Ah, yes. That’s correct. Mr. Brown.”

“Shoot. Quickly! We have to kill him. At the very least, we need to inflict some fatal injury to buy us time to enter Saur Land.”

Click, Leeha pulled the bolt and loaded a bullet first.

While he couldn’t fully understand everything Brown said, he didn’t ask further.

Leeha raised Black Bass.

“Black, devour.”

—Hehehe… the taste of this fancy blood. Know you the joy of gnawing at a well-hidden life’s vitality?—

With Black Bass’ confident voice, Leeha pulled the trigger.

Ba-boom!

The gunshot reverberated loudly, but there was nothing at the spot where Kaztor had been.

“Where?”


Without panicking, Leeha quickly scanned the surroundings.

Just then, a voice came from behind!

“Ha Leeha! Yet again you’re ruining my work—”

Chiyou had pulled Kaztor out and was blocking in front of him.

As soon as Leeha saw Chiyou, he turned his head. Did Kidd and Luger miss Chiyou?

That was not the case.

—Bang! Bang! Bang!

“Aaaah—!”

Kidd’s countless bullets, and Luger’s explosive cannons that absorbed all the gunshots, were heard.

Though many were evaded, quite a number of hits had landed on Chiyou’s body.

Her figure, holding Kaztor tightly, flew into the distance.

‘Chiyou sacrificed herself?’

Leeha was surprised. She, who always prioritized her own life above all else, protected someone?

When she rushed to save Kaztor, she must have foreseen that she would be attacked as soon as she redirected her focus from the confrontation with Kidd and Luger.

Nonetheless, she saved Kaztor and bore the wounds.

In other words, this meant that Kaztor held enough value, and there was only one reason why that could be.

“Damn it!”

Having quickly concluded his thoughts, Leeha shifted the aim of his gun back to Kaztor, who Chiyou held in her arms.

Although she cradled him close, hitting the seasoned dark elf wasn’t a problem.

“Multi-Warhead Shot!”


“Blood Mist!”

Unfortunately, he hadn’t expected this.

He hadn’t anticipated that she could use vampire skills even in broad daylight as a Vampire Queen.

Though the power was reduced, it was enough for evasion.

Leeha, seeing the hazy red mist, was taken aback. He had known that Chiyou had such a skill

But what happened to Kaztor?

“C—crazy… how is this—”

Why had he also turned into a fog of blood?

『Hoo… I thought I would be late, but this was easier than I expected.』

Chiyou wasn’t a fool.

She knew very well how she had become the “Vampire Queen.”

The moment Bathory’s fangs touched her nape, it happened!

Not only drinking blood, but if transfusion was possible!

『I can use it enough for my own purposes. Khuuhuuhut!』

“You crazy bitch!”

Boom────────……!

General attacks wouldn’t work on the blood fog that had resisted multi-warhead missiles. The bullets simply passed through the fog.

‘Black! What’s happening?! Is that some form of evasion?’

—Isn’t it similar to me being embedded in their body? Remember, contractor. I can only drink blood when I am connected to them.—

‘Exactly! That fog is “blood” fog! Even if it just brushes by, you have to—damn it!’

Would it nullify all attacks?

If they intended to capture it, how should they do it?

‘The range of the blood fog itself isn’t wide. It can move in a fog state, but… the overall distribution of the fog is low.’

What if they attacked everything within the fog’s range?

Area magic?

But he had no area magic.

Multi-Warhead shells spread wide, but they didn’t bombard the entire range; they just created a relatively wide spread.

‘I don’t have area magic… no, I do. I do.’

If there was any possibility, it was just one.

Something that couldn’t be used right now, that’s all.

Leeha bit his lip.

Kaztor, who managed to find his consciousness within the blood fog, raised his voice.

『Haa… haa… vampire.』

『I’m not aware of any instance where a Dark Elf became a vampire, but… I believe the teacher will find it out better. Some of my blood is currently being transfused to recover, but it’s slow—』

『This is enough… You’ve done me a great favor. Huff!』

Something black flickered from the fog.

The fact that skills could be used meant that attacks were also possible! As Leeha hesitated and stepped back, something caught on his heel.

Leeha turned his head to look back.

“Stop, Kaztor.”

『Pierce』 Brown.

“It won’t go as you wish anymore.”

『Accuracy』 Elizabeth.

“Rotzak. I’m so glad I can finally shoot your face.”

And 『Rapidfire』 Browless.

The Three Musketeers pointed all their firearms at the sky.

『Kyaaaa──────!』

Confirming that they were no longer being restrained, Alexander and Bailephus took positions.

“If you mo~ve~ even a bit~”

“I will tell you we’re going to blow you~”

“Blow you to bits~”

Luger, holding the Acht-Acht, shouted from a distance while Kidd stood by Leeha’s side.

Leeha shivered for a moment. Even as he spoke, his jaw trembled.

“…almost turned into a chicken.”

He wondered how goosebumps must have felt on the physical body connected to the Middle Earth network.

Leeha hoped he wouldn’t embarrass himself.

* * *

At least to Leeha, further combat seemed meaningless.

Chiyeo and Kaztor weren’t foolish enough to challenge the fully tilted scales.

『Hmm… Poor humans, do you think this will suffice?』

However, the voice wasn’t as despairing as Leeha had imagined.

『Elizabeth, oh, Elizabeth. Is this how you repay the blessing I bestowed upon you?』

“Shut that mouth!”

────────────……!!!!

Elizabeth instantly fired.

To Leeha, the gun seemed too long to even hold properly. Kidd’s eyes were also fixed on the gun she was wielding.

‘That is…’

‘The gun used by the 《Arcane Sniper》, isn’t it?’

At least she used it. However, both Leeha and Kidd guessed that what she just fired wasn’t the Arcane Bullet.

There had been no change in Kaztor, who was in a state of Blood Mist.

『Kaztor-nim.』

Chiyou’s urgent voice was heard.

Kaztor’s voice resonated soon after.

『Ha, did you think I would be bound by the magic of a weakened Gold Dragon upon entering the East? This… Me? But today, today… I will retreat.』

『Where do you think you’re going! 〈Electric Imprisonment〉!』

Pzzt― Pzztzt―!

Bailephus, who had approached unnoticed, cast a binding spell that Blaugrunn had attempted to use once.

The electric prison closed in from all sides, successfully surrounding the Blood Mist, but Chiyou did not seem particularly flustered.

Shuuuu…!

Something black began to spread out again, soon starting to push those confines away.

『Remember this. Kyle belongs to me. You all can’t do anything.』

“Don’t be ridiculous. We will definitely go to Saur Land and―”

『Heh, heh, heh, your mana surely can’t be traced there. But how long do you think you can stay there? And more importantly… do you think you can fix everything there?』

“We can. Even if we can’t, we won’t act according to your will.”

『Fine, fine. Have it your way. You will all come back to me, crying. Go.』

『Yes.』

Chiyou hurriedly began to move.

She knew better than anyone that the skill’s duration was running out. Nevertheless, she did not show any sign of panic.

Booom—————ooom!

But their figures vanished immediately.

“A Dark Elf…”

“And a Vampire attribute…”

“Even then, it was Chiyou, the Vampire Queen the second Bathory, who directly infused her blood.”

Leeha was deep in thought.

“Huuu… It’s okay, it’s much better now. From now on―”

Thud, thud, thud.

However, there was no need for complicated thinking.

NPCs understood it better than users did.

“―Listening to these friends should give us some responses. Right, friends?”

With a smiling face, Browless squeezed in between Elizabeth and Brown, putting his arms around their shoulders.

The sunset was still setting in the sky.

* * *

“This is overcooked.”

“You call this overcooked? Do Americans eat raw meat?”

When Kidd prodded the meat, Luger knocked his stick away. Kidd slightly lifted his hat and glared at Luger.

“… In Germany, raw pork is considered a delicacy.”

“Th- that’s a very― very rare! Köln region cuisine only! How can someone who only knows about hamburgers talk about meat!”

Luger was shocked at the mention of cuisine from the Köln region in Germany.

Even though he tried desperately to counterattack, Kidd merely scoffed.

“Texas is the land of steak. Moreover, if we talk about the origin of hamburgers, it was German immigrants who brought them to America―”

“Shut up! You, you! Do you run a meat restaurant in real life!?”

“It’s common sense. Common. Sense.”

A sudden debate about the fundamentals of meat cuisine ensued!

Kidd and Luger kept boasting about whose country’s cooking methods were superior.

The reason both could have such an animated discussion was simple. They weren’t the ones cooking.

Sizzle————–

“Hmm?”

“Ugh, smoke! There’s smoke!”

When the cook intentionally pressed down on the meat to create smoke, Kidd and Luger complained.

The cook lifted a blackened bass, inserting a magazine.

Click.

“Hey, can you two just keep your mouths shut if you’re not going to help? Just… silently eat, okay?”

“I-I was just teaching that American, who knows nothing about meat, a lesson!”

“Once again, Texas is the land of steak.”

Wedged between Kidd and Luger cooking the meat, Leeha finally had to take drastic measures.

“You guys really test me, 〈Soul Link〉!”

────────────────!

“Ugh!”

“C’mon―”

Luger and Kidd briefly turned their heads as a red light burst out. As the light faded, a giant bear emerged.

“Grr?”

“A, a bear… Yes, right. Ha Leeha, you―”

“Koma, I’ll give you this chunk here, so just move these two humans over there.”

The steak chunk Leeha tossed was quickly caught and eaten by the bear.

“Gr…”

“Move it, bear!”

“Do you have any idea how much this coat costs!?”

Although they could escape, Luger and Kidd followed the bear’s guidance(?).

After pushing the two far enough from the makeshift grill to the campfire, Leeha could finally focus on cooking again.
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“‘How long has it been since we had this kind of leisure?’”

Although there was a possibility that Kaztor and Chiyou were nearby, Leeha’s party knew that they would not be able to call for reinforcements or launch an offensive immediately. They were preparing for roadside camping to allow the NPCs, who were exhausted from the long journey, to recover and to gather information from their conversations.

“〈Master Recovery〉, 〈Great Cure〉.”

Bailephus had reverted to his human form and was using magic. Near the campfire, a light as bright as the sun flickered briefly.

“How is it now?”

Bailephus asked, but the person who had been the subject of the magic did not open their mouth.

“Hmm. The words—”

“I, I will ask. How are you now? Do you feel a bit better, Kyle?”

Elizabeth quickly intervened as the Gold Dragon made a somewhat displeased expression.

The fact that an Ancient Dragon had personally used healing magic, and yet the person couldn’t even look him in the eye, let alone offer a word of thanks, was concerning.

Alexander and Fernand merely thought that Kyle’s condition must be quite bad upon seeing this.

“Our son, how is your head? Is it still hurting?”

“… It hurts.”

“It hurts? It’s still hurting?”

Kyle’s voice was so faint that Elizabeth, who was right next to him, could barely hear it.

Seeing this, Bailephus tilted his head in confusion and attempted to use the skill again, but Brown shook his head and spoke up.

“I hoped that the magic cast by an Ancient Dragon might make a difference, but… it seems it is not the case. Normal magic will not cure him.”

“What do you mean by that? Are you saying my abilities are insufficient?”

“No, if it sounded that way, I apologize. I was merely saying that Kyle’s condition is not ordinary. It’s likely not even a disease to begin with.”

Bailephus crossed his arms and sat down.


Elizabeth propped Kyle up and managed to get him to sit, and as the atmosphere froze for a moment, Browless spoke up.

“When did Kyle’s condition start?”

“It’s been like this since he was born.”

“You mean 20 years ago… Since then until now?”

“Yeah, it’s always hurt.”

Browless bit his lip.

Luger and Kidd also sat quietly, observing the situation.

Was it from that time, when they left without telling me anything?

Browless’s muttered words, which seemed like he was talking to himself, were remembered by the two.

If he were to bring it up again now, the atmosphere would turn even colder.

Fortunately, the NPC characterized by Browless’s age didn’t make such remarks.

“Sorry, Les. We want to introduce Kyle to you as the ajussi he’s closest to with his mom and dad, but… it looks like he’s not in good condition right now.”

“It’s alright, Beth. He’ll get better eventually, right?”

“Of course! When he gets better… When he gets better, he smiles a lot. And he doesn’t cover his face like this. He’s twenty now, and he speaks so well!”

The problem was that the couple’s attitude towards the ‘twenty-year-old’ Kyle was not what one would expect for an adult.

Most NPC background settings in Middle Earth are similar to reality.

However, Elizabeth spoke as if she were addressing a five- or six-year-old child, which puzzled Alexander and other users.

Of course, Browless showed no reaction.

“That’s good. If he’s the son of Mr. Brown and Mrs. Brown, then it’s only right.”

Browless even had a satisfied look on his face.


He had the personality to let bygones be bygones. Kidd seemed impressed by his words.

“That’s right! And his shooting! I… Ahem, I… Oh, sorry. I get really sentimental. Why am I tearing up?”

“Liza.”

“Sniff! Yes. It’s okay, darling. I won’t cry. Now… I don’t have to cry anymore.”

Moreover, the story about Arcane Sniper hadn’t been fully unraveled.

Even so, Elizabeth managed to hold back her tears with a somewhat relieved expression.

When Browless patted her shoulder gently, Leeha, who had been listening to the entire story by the fire, finally approached.

“Alright, let’s eat first! I made all of this myself!”

Leeha distributed thick pieces of meat and some simple vegetables.

When the freshly cut meat was being shared, no one could bring up any serious discussion.

“Impressive skills, Leeha.”

“Has human culinary art reached such heights?”

“Oh, this taste… Isn’t this meat similar to what they serve in Fibiel’s capital? The Holy Grill, perhaps?”

Browless, Bailephus, and Fernand admired Leeha’s cooking, each adding to his pride.

“Everyone, eat as much as you want. Luckily, it’s easy to find delicious meat around here. And Kidd, Luger! You two were so chatty about the meat and now you’re just stuffing your faces quietly?”

Kidd and Luger, reluctant to compliment Leeha’s cooking skills but unable to resist the taste, chose to eat silently and quickly, displaying a hint of embarrassment when caught by Leeha.

In the lively atmosphere, Elizabeth lightened up and playfully teased Leeha.

“Cooking is nice, but shouldn’t you be practicing your marksmanship instead? No wonder your sniping skills were lacking!”

“Oh, I’m sorry, senior. But I have started following the ‘Guide to Firearms’.”

“Oh, really? I guess that’s why Kaztor created such a fuss!”


Black Bass had awakened.

Elizabeth understood what Leeha subtly hinted. Her eyes widened, causing Kidd and Luger to momentarily tense.

Before they could give away more hints about firearms and shooting, Leeha spoke up.

“Yes, if I had used senior’s rifle… Kaztor would have been dead. It’s a shame.”

Leeha took up the mantle of discussing Arcane Sniper indirectly, drawing the attention of Browless, Elizabeth, and Kyle.

* * *

“How much do you know, Leeha?”

Browless was the first to speak.

Kidd and Luger quietly set down their forks. Leeha briefly glanced at them before turning his attention back to Browless.

“Truthfully… not much. However, I did see Kaztor’s journal on Arcane Sniper and read the memories of the former Arcane Sniper.”

“We also know that Ms. Elizabeth’s rifle is Arcane Sniper.”

Kidd added his explanation to Leeha’s words.

Luger, who had been watching Browless and Elizabeth intently, chimed in.

“But in context, it couldn’t be the seniors. The one with the suspicious scent is their son.”

“L-Luger! Watch your tongue!”

“But it’s the truth. You all think the same, don’t you? Kyle is the Arcane Sniper. Isn’t that right?”

Luger wasn’t fazed by the legacy of the Three Musketeers.

Unlike the more cautious Leeha and Kidd, Luger went straight to the point with a hunter’s instinct.

While Elizabeth shot him a disapproving look, Browless nodded.

“That’s correct.”

Luger bared his teeth in acknowledgment.

“Since there’s nothing left to hide, no need to get upset. The problem now is the next part—”

“As we’ve confirmed, the gun capable of shooting Arcane Bullet can only be used by the Arcane Sniper. So why, then, is senior Elizabeth using it?”

Before Luger could dig further into his pointed question, Leeha interjected, cutting him off to avoid worsening the tense atmosphere.

By now, even surrounding users like Alexander and Bailephus were fully focused on the conversation.

Elizabeth, sensing all eyes on her, lowered her head and sighed.

“Liza, if it’s hard for you—”

“No. No, it’s fine. Since Les’s disciples came all the way to meet us and learned this much… I can’t hide it.”

Brown tried to console her. However, Elizabeth was a strong woman.

“For Kyle’s sake”, she stated resolutely.

Additionally, she was a mother.

At Elizabeth’s words, the Users even forgot to breathe.

Elizabeth held up her long rifle. The metallic clinking sound resonated heavily.

“When I was pregnant… during the 2nd Human-Demon War, Rotzak came to me. And brought this gun”, she began, her story flowing naturally.

Among all those listening intently to the revelations of that time, the most focused was Browless.

Unlike his usual self, he even removed his hat, running his hand through his disheveled hair, and stared fixedly at Elizabeth’s face.

“At that time, I didn’t understand what it meant. That this gun was linked to the Arcane Sniper. No, I thought the Arcane Sniper was just folklore or a myth. The sorcerer said he found this gun after searching the entire world and begged me to end the war using it. How could I refuse such a plea? But… it was a trap. The moment I held the gun, I became the Arcane Sniper.”

“What?”

“Wha— What? You became the Arcane Sniper?”

“This is unbelievable!”

Leeha and Luger Kidd were both shocked.

The concept of “becoming” the Arcane Sniper was unheard of. That role belonged solely to one person.

All seven bullets had to be discharged, and the Shooter’s existence erased until completion.

In other words, there could be no “midway replacement”.

“To be precise, the moment I held the gun, Rotzak used magic on me. He intended to make my unborn child, Kyle, the next Arcane Sniper and to control both my husband and me. I vaguely remember some noise… cursing? I’m not sure. Rotzak seemed flustered and mumbled, and there was another voice overlapping, but it feels like a dream now.”

Elizabeth spoke calmly.

Despite her composed demeanor, her anger and sorrow were evident, even more intense than if she had cried.

The fact that her unborn child was used so cruelly allowed Browless to empathize deeply with Elizabeth.

“Damn it! That bastard Rotzak! Next time, I’ll turn his face into a beehive—”

“Fufufu, thank you, Les. But could you listen to my story first?”

Elizabeth calmed the agitated Browless, despite her shocking revelation.

Leeha and the Three Musketeers pondered over the “voice”.

If the voice came from Arcane Sniper’s gun, there could only be one target.

“Zamiel… He cursed? Meaning something displeased him… But what made Rotzak flustered?”

Luger and Kidd could only speculate that it involved Zamiel.

But Leeha was different.

He recalled another memory related to Arcane Sniper passed down by the “White Reaper.”

“You mentioned that the next Arcane Sniper should be born soon. If it refers to Kyle, then… Zamiel was displeased with the current Arcane Sniper. That’s why he cursed. So, if Zamiel didn’t like the current Arcane Sniper, then the one he originally considered as Arcane Sniper must be!”

Elizabeth.

Despite being grouped with the Three Musketeers, she was a woman who could be called the strongest musketeer in Middle Earth’s history.

Zamiel would have wanted her.

And there was only one way he could have learned about her.

“Kaztor… I see. They made a deal.”

The pieces started to fit together in Leeha’s mind.

“Introducing Elizabeth as the ‘material.’ And the moment she held the gun, Kaztor made her unborn child the Arcane Sniper. Could Zamiel’s energy? Or something similar be transferred at will?”

No one had researched and analyzed Arcane Bullet as much as Kaztor.

In that sense, it seemed possible to Leeha.

“Kaztor definitely…”

Leeha replayed Elizabeth’s account in his mind, drawing the scene.

“When she held the gun, Kaztor made a plan but muttered in panic, implying he could converse with Zamiel. Revealing his plan betrayed Zamiel’s trust, hence his outburst. This suggests their relationship is strained. Zamiel might even want Kaztor dead.”

Elizabeth described the situation in vivid detail.

Every word she spoke was a clue.

With the limited information at hand, Leeha had to make the closest possible deduction. This would provide the main foundation for future battles.
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“I sensed that something had happened to my child back then, and only then did Rotzak say that if I didn’t listen to him, Kyle would die. That’s also when I first heard about Arcane Bullet. I’m sorry, Les. I just couldn’t tell you—”

“I completely understand, Beth. You had no other choice.”

As Browless looked at her with intense eyes, Brown patted his shoulder to lighten the mood.

“Haha, Browless, you’ll understand once you get married! When it comes to kids… you just can’t help it!”

Browless gave an awkward smile, and Elizabeh, who was watching the scene, continued to speak.

“So, we had to run away. When the Demon King’s army retreated… my husband and I came here. But we couldn’t live among monsters. So, we lived separately. Orders from Rotzak would come occasionally, and we would carry them out.”

They had lived the life of puppets.

This coming from the members of the Three Musketeers, renowned as the best musketeers in all of Middle Earth. Yet, there was no hint of shame in her.

‘Was it because she’d already become accustomed to this life? Or because she’d transcended everything? It’s probably the latter.’

Or perhaps it was because she was a mother.

Leeha couldn’t fathom the feelings of a mother who only thought of her child, Kyle.

“Kyle inherited the abilities, but he held the gun himself. So, does that mean he can use that gun?”

“Yes, to put it simply.”

Elizabeth nodded in response to Kidd’s question.

Luger tilted his head and asked, “What about Arcane Bullet?”

“I can’t use it.”

“So, Kyle can use it?”

At Elizabeth’s answer, Leeha asked immediately.

A sudden sense of foreboding filled him.

Why had Kaztor gone to such lengths, even opposing Zamiel, to make Kyle Arcane Sniper?


Making Elizabeth Arcane Sniper alone would have sufficed. If that had been the original contract, keeping just that would have secured the legendary musketeer ‘Brown’.

An unborn child would naturally heed their parents’ words anyway.

‘Ah…? Could that be the reason―’

Leeha felt a chill run down his spine. Elizabeth briefly looked at his changed expression.

Then she spoke.

“Yes… Only when Kaztor is present.”

Why had Kaztor made Kyle Arcane Sniper?

Why did Zamiel eagerly await the handover of Arcane Sniper?

An incomplete Arcane Sniper.

Arcane Sniper completely controlled by Kaztor.

Leeha had to change his way of thinking.

Kaztor hadn’t taken the risk just to oppose Zamiel.

‘Only a human can become Arcane Sniper! That’s right, so—’

How had a dark elf, who couldn’t become Arcane Sniper, controlled the Arcane Bullet’s power?

The dark elf had been intelligent and persistent.

Kaztor had tried to control Arcane Bullet as he wished and at the same time aimed to subjugate even Zamiel.

It was natural that Zamiel had cursed at Kaztor.

* * *

In need of time to organize their thoughts, only the sound of the firewood crackling in the bonfire filled the silence.

Brown turned his head and sighed, while Elizabeth looked back at Kyle, who was sitting behind her.


Even while talking about himself, Kyle didn’t take off his hood.

“After hearing from Rotzak, especially after Bluebeard came here, I also talked to him.”

“Le! Do you know where he is?”

“The place he used as a secret hideout must have been abandoned by now. You know his personality well, dragon….”

“Yes, that’s true. I see.”

Bailephus jumped in surprise, then nodded.

Bluebeard had come to the New Continent before the humans of the Old Continent. There was no way he would have missed Elizabeth and Brown.

“So, we got to know more details about Arcane Bullet and Kaztor. The reason he talked was obvious too.”

“Yes, as my husband said, Bluebeard wanted our power, or more accurately, Kyle’s power. He told us to go to the eastern edge of the New Continent.”

The eastern end.

The players’ ears perked up at the newly introduced clue.

“What’s over there?”

“Saur Land.”

At Browless’s question, Elizabeth answered lightly.

Fernand, intrigued by the unfamiliar name, glanced at Bailephus.

However, even the Ancient Gold Dragon looked puzzled, as if they had never heard of it.

“What… is that?”

“According to Bluebeard, it’s the land with the most advanced civilization. The curse that Rotzak placed on Kyle is incomplete… so we might find a solution in Saur Land. 〈‘Of course, you might not’〉, he teased us. Nonetheless, we were desperate enough to cling to any straw.”

“Hmm. But at that time, we were still receiving periodic contact from Rotzak. We couldn’t move recklessly. Besides, Kyle was too young back then.”

Why had Bluebeard said such a thing?


The players had a rough idea of his personality and didn’t believe he was merely teasing them.

“Heh, so instead of wasting time, I thought why not teach shooting!”

“Hahaha. That’s just like you, liza. If 『Pierce』 and 『Accuracy』 were the teachers, the skill level must be impressive.”

Elizabeth deliberately tried to lighten the mood, and Browless responded with a laugh.

— I thought I was going to die back then. The director must have a sense of humor.

— Shouldn’t we find a way to subdue it while it’s weakened like this?

— Let’s just listen for now. About Saur Land.

While the Three Musketeers whispered among themselves, the atmosphere shifted slightly.

“Really. Your disciples probably wouldn’t lose a fight.”

Brown said with a hearty laugh, looking at Browless. For a moment, the Three Musketeers noticed a change in Browless’s expression.

“Hah! Come on, Brown. These three here are better shooters than I am. I acknowledge your son’s skills, but he wouldn’t stand a chance against my kids.”

“Oh, really? I seem to remember being stronger than you 20 years ago. A disciple taught by a stronger master should be… naturally stronger, right?”

Brown shrugged, moving closer to Kyle. He picked up the hat that Browless had set aside.

“Stronger? Are you going to bring up the King’s Commendation story again? If you’ve forgotten, I let you have that win… it seems your memory isn’t what it used to be.”

“Let me have it? Nonsense. Even by the ‘shooting tournament score’ standard, the result was the same, wasn’t it?”

“I use 『Rapidfire』. I don’t rely on brute force to shred the target for points like you, so ignorant spectators couldn’t judge the destructive power—”

Feeling both chills and amusement from the suddenly intense atmosphere, the Three Musketeers watched.

— Luger, Kidd! Doesn’t this scene seem familiar?

— Does 『Pierce』 also inherit personalities?

— 『Rapidfire』 is just as narrow-minded as it was back then, huh?

Caught between whether to laugh or cry at the familiar bickering between Brown and Browless, a familiar awkward tension arose.

“I don’t know what you two keep blabbering about! How about we loosen up with a ‘Free for All’? Three of us, 1:1:1, within a 3 km radius, unlimited time?”

With a clack—

Elizabeth quietly clutched her rifle.

The sound of metal silenced the two men immediately.

“This always happens when they meet. Where was I? Ah! Saur Land. Around the time Rotzak revealed to us that he was Kaztor, we began to move. We headed to the far east and finally reached the boundary of Saur Land, but—”

“Did you get in? So?”

“—We couldn’t enter.”

Elizabeth sighed.

Brown added to explain why they couldn’t enter.

“If you’re not permitted, you can’t even cross the boundary. Furthermore, to obtain permission, you must summon them… but they never show interest in us. It’s a dilemma.”

“How can we get their interest?”

Leeha asked cautiously.

Brown shook his head and replied.

“Well, to summon them from such an isolated place… haha, unless you are one of their kin, it’s probably impossible.”

“Hmm, in a land where we don’t know what exists… against people we don’t know… only their kin can enter?”

Kidd quickly summarized the situation.

Pure strength alone wouldn’t be enough. If it were, Elizabeth and Brown would have already tried it.

“Ugh, this game is so annoying.”

Luger murmuring meant there really was no other way.

Fernand crossed his arms, re-evaluating the skills and knowledge he possessed, while Alexander pretended to listen to people’s conversations with an air of disinterest.

Leeha was the one who stepped up.

“The locals living in Saur Land?”

“Ah, you know them. The place where Toon’s tribe resides.”

“That’s right!”

Leeha clapped his hands in realization.

Kaztor had attempted to make a deal. But why?

Why had he wanted “such a useless item”?

Middle Earth didn’t create useless items.

As Leeha rummaged through his bag, all eyes turned to him.

“Then what if we mimic Toon’s voice?”

“That… what is that?”

What emerged from his bag was a wind instrument resembling a trumpet or clarinet. The peculiar aspect was that it seemed to be made of bone.

“Oh, it’s Toon’s vocal cords. If you blow into this end, it produces sound.”

Alexander, who had been listening nonchalantly, dropped his soup bowl.

* * *

After Leeha took out Toon’s vocal cords, a considerable commotion erupted around the campfire.

Luger and Kidd pushed Leeha, questioning why he had such an item but never mentioned it. Fernand, with sparkling eyes, even asked what he needed to offer to obtain it.

Even the ever-dignified Bailephus transformed silently into dragon form, stating he wanted to use it. By the time Elizabeth, who had barely stopped crying, laughed so hard that she teared up again, the situation began to calm down.

After things settled down, Leeha took a deep breath.

“What Kaztor said at the buoy in the central area of Dawn’s Sea was indeed… another clue. The reason he wanted this is likely for just one reason. It wasn’t about wanting to enter Saur Land himself, but rather…”

To prevent Elizabeth and Brown, or Kyle from entering Saur Land.

That was the most rational deduction.

It aligned with Elizabeth’s words, and most importantly, it highlighted Kyle’s incomplete status as Arcane Sniper.

Kyle could only shoot Arcane Bullet when Kaztor was present.

“From past memories of Arcane Sniper, arcane Bullet had a condition of being used at least once within a certain period. Failure to do so caused extreme headaches and suffering, which couldn’t be endured with potions, healing, or mere willpower. Eventually, they would be forced to use Arcane Bullet.”

It could be considered a sort of curse.

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger speculated it was a special ‘status effect’ powered by Zamiel.

In other words, Zamiel controlled the continuous succession of Arcane Sniper using this!

Until now, at least since Zamiel first emerged, this remained unchanged.

But Kyle?

Kyle couldn’t use Arcane Bullet without Kaztor.

If Zamiel couldn’t exert influence in this state, it would be the first challenge Zamiel faced.

“That’s why Zamiel cursed when Elizabeth picked up the gun. It’s also why ‘Francis’ from Arcane Sniper memories gave me a plain clue.”

Reversing this interpretation, the reason Kaztor targeted Toon’s vocal cords became apparent.

To prevent Kyle from going there.

This raised another question for Leeha.

Did Zamiel know there was something in the Far East?

“Zamiel told me to go to the Far East. Was it simply telling me to kill Kyle and Elizabeth, obtain the gun of ‘Arcane Sniper’, and become the new sniper?”

But what if Zamiel knew about Saur Land?

“What if he led me to take Kyle to Saur Land? If that was the implication?”

What would unfold in Saur Land?

If Kaztor tried to prevent Kyle from entering Saur Land, and Zamiel tried to get him there?

“If Kaztor’s twisted power reverts to its original state, then Kyle will eventually―”

Become a complete Arcane Sniper.

In other words, he would be able to use Arcane Bullet even without Kaztor.
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“Uh? What? Wait a minute. Is that how the answer turned out? Isn’t that worse? I mean, Kyle might not become the true Arcane Sniper. So, what if Kaztor rewound the situation? If that happens… the true Arcane Sniper would be Elizabeth instead of Kyle?”

For a moment, Leeha’s head was in a jumble.

“That’s also the worst ending, isn’t it?”

What exactly were they aiming for?

There was also someone who had relayed information about Saur Land to Elizabeth.

“Le…”

Should he trust him or not?

Would entering Saur Land bring benefits or losses?

“Sigh… Middle Earth really knows how to give people a headache.”

“Uh? What’s wrong, Ha Leeha?”

As Leeha let out a deep sigh, Fernand approached him with a big smile.

All the NPCs were asleep.

Only the users were sitting near the campfire, each sorting out their thoughts and volunteering to stay on watch duty.

“No, it’s just… whether we should go to Saur Land or not―”

“Of course we should go! According to Elizabeth, saur Land is about a day and a half distance from here. We don’t know their exact travel speed, but… we should expect it to take around two days. We’re so close; what do you mean we shouldn’t go?”

Despite Fernand’s bright demeanor, not everyone’s faces were as cheerful.

The accumulated fatigue from before Leeha joined also played a part.

“Logging out… isn’t an option?”

“Heh, if you want to leave, go ahead, Alexander. But you’ll be surprised to see who’s ranked number one when you come back.”

“… Even if I log out for a month, there’s no way you would ever reach the top, Luger.”


Alexander shook his head.

Luger, feeling provoked, was about to speak again, but Fernand quickly stepped in.

“Everyone must be very tired, but let’s endure just a bit longer. In a place where teleportation doesn’t work, if we log out, it will be hard to regroup.”

“If you’re tired, just sleep. I’m going to sleep first.”

Kidd pulled a blanket from his bag, spread it on the ground, and lay down.

The users stared at him in astonishment.

“Getting back into those sleeping habits. Just because you have your eyes closed doesn’t mean you’re sleeping. The only thing that’s impossible in Middle Earth is sleeping.”

“That’s enough for me. Just resting the eyes removes a lot of fatigue.”

Kidd took off his hat and covered his face as if to indicate he wouldn’t argue further.

Leeha, who had intended to tease him, and even Luger, gave up.

“Well, anyway! He has a point. Let’s rest as much as we can and head out at first light. It’s exciting to think about what we might find.”

“What could we find? Even if there’s a castle, who’s to say things will go smoothly?”

“There will be! Didn’t they mention advanced civilization? Think ‘Laputa’! Even though it’s quite a distance away, wouldn’t they know about the ‘floating island’ in the Eastern New Continent?”

Why was Fernand so excited? The adventurer had already caught a whiff of something.

Alexander nodded, as if he hadn’t considered that possibility.

“Indeed. 〈Those without the qualification cannot enter.〉. It might mean they hold the authority to bestow that ‘qualification’.”

“Perhaps. They might be the ones who created Laputa. Even if they didn’t create it, they could manage it… After all, we couldn’t enter earlier, right? And just now―”

“Right! That’s similar to what Elizabeth said earlier! She mentioned getting to the boundary but not being able to enter…”

Leeha’s eyes widened.

Luger’s lips curved upwards.


“It’s going to get busy.”

“I agree.”

Luger and Kidd shared the same thought simultaneously.

Around the campfire’s flickering light, each user painted their own picture of what awaited them.

* * *

“Block them for two hours.”

“Easier said than done. Do you think two hours will just fly by because it’s night?”

“That’s why I’m asking. Otherwise, would I be begging?”

As Lark shrugged his shoulders, Pung shook his head.

“Aish, let’s not talk about it. You want control but won’t let me use the kids… Well, I got something from the headquarters, so I’ll do my best, but if it wasn’t the captain’s orders, it wouldn’t be possible.”

“Hehe. I have to get stronger, right!? Later, we will—”

“Lark! How long are you going to talk? Hurry up and go.”

“Yes! Then, Chief Treasurer of the Virtue Knights, I’ll be counting on you. Don’t forget who promoted you from Senior Treasurer to Chief Treasurer, okay? Hehe, please, Pung!”

Lark gave a light gesture to Pung and ran off.

Pung, frowning, began to survey the cave entrance. The task Lark asked of Pung was simple.

“No matter how strong a ranker he is, trying to catch a dragon with just Shin Nara… Can I really trust that guy? Over there! Set up a simple barricade! We’re going to monopolize this area under the pretext of a Virtue Knights’ training session for two hours, so no entry for civilians!”

“Understood!”

There was no need to mobilize the entire Virtue Knights.

Along with Lark, Pung, a ‘user’ affiliated with the Knights, had the brains and skill to perfectly control the area around a dragon’s lair in the outskirts of Minis.

After successfully blocking user entry, Pung turned around.


Shin Nara and Lark were no longer visible.

“Not telling me the reason, and this is the second time… Was it with Blue last time?”

It had been approximately two days since they returned from the lair of an Adult Blue Dragon, having played just as a duo, without an attack squad.

Whether they captured the dragon or not, Lark hadn’t disclosed the outcome even to Pung.

It was natural for Lark not to explain why.

But the fact that they entered and exited the dragon’s lair unscathed.

At least, they didn’t face ‘forced logout.’

That alone was enough for Pung to deduce what kind of tasks Lark and Shin Nara had undertaken and succeeded in.

“A green dragon, huh. I needed a poison resistance item anyway. I’ll need to ask for one.”

With eyes filled with anticipation, Pung gazed at the dark cave.

From the massive opening on the verdant mountain ridge, a terrifying roar began to echo.

* * *

“GRAAAAAAWRRR―!”

“One, two, trois, contre―attaque.”

The mud monster emitting gas from its surface launched a stabbing attack.

Shin Nara’s body moved in a straight line.

Instead of dodging by moving her feet, she evaded by twisting her body’s axis, deflecting the monster’s attacking arm and thrusting her sword into its neck.

Lark, witnessing the counter-attack performed with lightning speed, lightly clapped his hands.

“These guardians are fast, so I thought it’d be cool to see you go against them… But in reality, they’re no match for you at all, Nara.”

A dragon’s lair, typically structured for raids, comprised long corridors from the entrance to the dragon’s actual dwelling, traps, and zones filled with ‘guardians’—monster minions serving the dragon.

The first step in a ‘dragon raid’ usually involves dealing with the guardians and reaching the dragon’s main chamber.

Guardians matched the dragon’s attributes and were stronger than regular monsters; due to their team play, attack squads had to prepare meticulously.

The fact that these two were casually strolling through such an area was incredible, yet Lark still found time to observe Shin Nara.

“Still, it’s good practice.”

“Practice?”

“In the village, I set the movement speed option to the lowest. Relying too much on stats hampers practice.”

This meant she effectively nullified the adjustment made by her agility stats.

Nevertheless, her movements were too swift for the average user to discern with the naked eye.

Naturally so, for she was still an active national fencing champion.

“Oh—Ah! Right. Because Nara-ssi has her primary occupation… Amazing.”

Even though it was common knowledge to Lark as well, it was somewhat awkward for him who had only seen her in Middle Earth.

Moreover, he found it hard to believe that she could move like this even after discarding the stat adjustments.

“By the way, why do you call out ‘skill names’ even though it’s not really a skill?”

“Of course, it’s for practice. It’s a condition my coach allowed under Middle Earth’s gameplay. To keep my body from becoming dull, I have to continuously imprint it.”

“Is the second reason to confuse onlookers?”

When Lark squinted his eyes and grinned, Shin Nara mimicked his expression in response.

“You’re quite perceptive. Yes, that’s also part of it. I stand out a lot in Fibiel, so I’m heavily analyzed… Giving names to all my movements can be a method to reduce that confusion. But how did you figure out it wasn’t a skill?”

“It’s not like we started hanging out just yesterday. I saw it when you dealt with ‘Guardians’ in the Blue Dragon’s Lair last time.”

“You saw it?”

Shin Nara looked at Lark with pretending to be surprised eyes.

In truth, there had been very few instances where they had hunted together. Besides their investigative trips, their joint activities at the Blue Dragon’s Lair were one of the rare occasions.

‘He could tell the difference between skills and normal attacks after just one instance?’

For close-combat characters, especially those like Shin Nara who focused on agility, the effects of their skills weren’t flashy. Many skills were designed to enhance movements or ensure automatic responses to enemy attacks.

Therefore, the more skilled one was, the harder it became to distinguish skills from regular movements. For top-grade talents like Shin Nara, it was nearly impossible to discern just by looking.

Lark wasn’t someone who would miss reading Shin Nara’s expression as she stared at him.

He gently lifted his multicolored sword and swung it.

“First, timing. Second, tempo. And the third, distance. I haven’t forgotten your teachings. Compared to standard attacks, skills felt excessively mechanical. It felt like some parts forcibly moved.”

His words made Shin Nara even more amazed.

He not only remembered what she said but had perfectly mastered and applied it.

“Wow, at this rate, shouldn’t I take up fencing? How’s this pose? Shoom! Shoom! I think I could be called the Swift Sword. What do you think?”

As she subtly admired him, Shin Nara couldn’t help but giggle at his playful antics.

She then put on a slightly pouting expression.

“I’m not sure how it translates on your end, but it’s not ‘Swift’, it’s the Godspeed[神速〉 Sword…”

Shin Nara’s face gradually grew serious as she spoke. Noticing her trailing words, Lark tilted his head.

“Nara-ssi?”

“Hold on… Fast… Fast.”

“Hmm, I’m not sure what you’re thinking, but wouldn’t it be faster to share with me?”

Lark tapped his temple lightly with his index finger.

As Shin Nara watched his gesture, she blurted out her still unordered thoughts.

“Godspeed. Fast. I thought it was just about reaching the ultimate speed! So—I wanted to push to the limit, and that’s why I set my movement speed to zero for this Dragon Raid! I only wanted to control all my movements with my strength! But—maybe… Godspeed Sword doesn’t only mean speed, but rather, how — um, what am I saying?”

Shin Nara blinked her bright eyes, bemused.

Lark burst into hearty laughter at her.

“You’re looking at it the wrong way.”

“What?”

“Hehe, at this point, all I can say is that it’s the opposite. It’s not something we can figure out just by thinking. So let’s start by taking down the Green.”

“What?”

Shin Nara’s face showed she had no idea what he meant.

Lark gazed at her for a while before he started walking deeper into the green dragon’s Lair.

TL’s Corner:

At this point, I won’t even mind if Nara fell for Lark.
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“What do you mean, you realized something—?”

“Kiruruk, Kirut—!”

“Oh! A little one shooting poison darts~? 〈Blue Hurricane〉.”

Lark ignored Shin Nara’s question and swung his sword.

The speed of the poison darts was fast, but not beyond Lark’s ability to dodge.

Moreover, Shin Nara was able to avoid them just by hearing the sound without even looking.

*Whoosh────!*

The blue mana particles that were at the tip of Lark’s sword instantly unleashed their power.

In the cave, where not even a breeze was felt, the suddenly surging blue storm tore another Guardian monster’s limbs apart.

Even Shin Nara, who had been trying to probe the meaning of Lark’s words, was momentarily speechless due to its power.

“Was it always this powerful?”

Lark couldn’t properly answer Shin Nara’s question.

He stared at his sword with a slightly emotional look, even biting his lower lip.

“Indeed… Indeed. I couldn’t tell from the usual tests, but now it’s clear.”

“Sorry?”

“Not only is its strength improved, but the casting time is also reduced. Although it consumes a bit more mana, the cooldown is shorter!”

“Oh my, does that mean—”

“Yes. At least, it means that the direction is correct! We’ve nailed it, Nara-ssi! We’ve nailed the strategy for hunting the Chromatic Dragon! With this proven Blue, we just need to kill the rest, all of them!”

Lark sheathed his sword with a lighthearted gesture and clasped Shin Nara’s hands. Moving along with Lark’s rhythm, her body swayed as well.

She didn’t try to shake off his hands.


Instead, she could only speak in a timid voice without meeting his eyes.

“My, my hand…”

“Hand? Oh, my apologies! It was improper of me to hold a lady’s hand without permission.”

Feeling more excited than ever, Lark felt slightly embarrassed. He calmed his emotions and bowed toward Shin Nara.

“I hope you will continue to join me on my journey.”

It was like the courteous gesture of a knight addressing a lady of medieval times.

Even though Shin Nara’s appearance resembled more of a knight than a lady, her heart couldn’t help but flutter.

How many people had seen her, always so rambunctious, as a ‘woman’ like this?

『There is no need to worry about that. Your journey ends here.』

“What?”

The one who responded was not Shin Nara.

“L-Lark!”

With just two steps, Shin Nara took a position beside Lark. Lark, who was showing his cool side with a bowed head, was utterly perplexed.

He had been waiting for her to recognize the seriousness hidden within his jest.

He was overjoyed to have finally begun unraveling the clues for his second job change, and he had barely mustered the courage to make his feelings known.

‘To receive a reply from a dragon, of all things. Ah, this is disappointing.’

Lifted by a weakly swinging sword, Lark’s face showed signs of fatigue.

Shin Nara tried to touch his shoulder to encourage him, but instead, she erected her sword again.

“Lark.”

“Yes?”


“It’s not just your journey. When that journey ends…”

Shin Nara began to move.

The attitude of the green dragon towards the ‘two humans’, worth less than one meal, was utterly lackadaisical.

Despite the fact that they had killed a few Guardians, he couldn’t fathom them being a real threat.

Shin Nara’s movements exploited the gap in the Adult Dragon AI’s thinking.

“〈Balestra〉, 〈Coup Droit〉!”

To Lark, it seemed as if her body had ‘stretched’.

From the tip of the sword extended by her stretched arm to the left foot stepping forward in a perfect line.

At the end of her seamless movement, her sword lightly pierced the green dragon’s ankle.

『Gyaaaaaaah—!』

The green dragon roared in response to the sudden attack.

As the wail filled the cave, Shin Nara shouted with all her might.

“It’s because my journey has to go on too!”

While more than half of her shout drowned in the din, Lark understood her words clearly.

What was certain was that the light had completely returned to his eyes.

Two colors began to merge simultaneously on the rainbow-hued sword held firmly by Lark.

“〈Green Embrace〉, 〈Blue Hurricane〉.”

It was clear that the dragon’s next target would be Shin Nara.

Lark protected her from the dragon preparing its breath attack, then used offensive magic aimed at the dragon’s right foot, which Shin Nara had injured.

They had fought a Blue Dragon only once before.


But once was enough for Shin Nara and Lark.

They knew what attack to use, where to begin unraveling the battle, and how to fight.

Shin Nara charged forward while Lark distanced himself.

Lark charged forward while Shin Nara distanced herself.

“〈Red—Sun〉.”

“〈Passe arrière〉.”

Even with just one match, they could display their best skills.

* * *

“Oh dear… This is boring, boring—”

“What’s boring about it?”

“Whoa, huh!? What’s going on, captain? How did you—wait, isn’t it—”

Pung, who was stretching, jumped up in surprise.

Shin Nara smiled at him, looking a bit tired. Lark rummaged through his bag and threw something at him.

“It took 22 minutes to deal with the guardians and 20 minutes to find the way. Phew. Just too many trap devices. Dragons are so cowardly.”

“It’s been 1 hour and 15 minutes since you went in?”

They spent 22 minutes dealing with the guardians, 20 minutes moving, totaling 42 minutes.

If they had been out for 75 minutes but spent 42 minutes on other things, how long had they been fighting the dragon?

A corner of Lark’s mouth lifted. He tossed something light and dark green to Pung.

“This—”

“It’s green dragon Skin. You can make a poison-resistant robe from it. Wear it during battle for brief periods or tan it to cover a shield. Ah! The training order we received from headquarters still has 20 hours left. Take a break in the village; I’ll give you another message within that time.”

“Huh? Huh?”

Before Pung could respond, Lark activated a crystal ball.

Pung, watching the spot where Lark had vanished amidst the violet glow, hurriedly looked at Shin Nara.

“Well, mr. Pung, we might need your cooperation a couple more times, the sooner the better.”

“Of course, dame Shin… For the advancement of relations between our countries—”

Whoosh—!

Shin Nara nodded with a smile and disappeared as well. She didn’t have the luxury to explain at length either.

The Berture Knights had only 20 hours to ‘control’ the area near the dragon’s lair.

Lark and Shin Nara aimed to deal with at least two more dragons within that time.

“Did they really catch a dragon? Or did they just bring a piece of fabric claiming it’s dragon skin—Hik!”

Pung muttered, verifying the green dragon Skin.

Lark certainly knew how to handle people.

* * *

Ram Hwajung soared into the air, extending her hand. Igor’s face twisted as he had been too preoccupied with the dragon to notice her.

“〈Jet Stream〉.”

“〈Burn Blood〉, 〈Spread Flame〉!”

The jet stream seemed like it could even sweep away a giant, but the wind couldn’t perform its full function.

Pyro used his blood as a catalyst to ignite flames and scattered them evenly.

Although the wind was saturated with cold and moisture, acting like a natural extinguisher, it couldn’t easily extinguish the magical fire.

“… Annoying fire.”

“That would be my line. If not for Burn Blood, the entire wind would’ve been snuffed out. This isn’t something an average ice flower magician can do.”

Pyro’s frown deepened.

Ram Hwajung showed no reaction to his gauging words about her condition.

At that moment, Igor finished his airborne combat and landed.

He looked at Pyro with frustration.

“Phew, while I’m fighting two dragons, you can’t even handle that bloodied wretch properly?”

“If I hadn’t saved you, you’d be dead.”

“Kakakak! What? You damn bastard—”

“Shall we do it?”

The giant and human did not avoid each other’s gaze. It was this very fact that infuriated those present.

“…… To have such composure in front of us.”

“It’s absurd.”

The eyebrows of the Silver Dragon, Arzenmacht, and the Bronze Dragon, Blaugrunn, twitched.

They were at the northernmost part of Shazrashian, near the Kalbaram Mountains, near the entrance to Peklo City.

Several vampires and large monsters launched a surprise attack, but Ram Hwajung and her party responded calmly.

“Blaugrunn! Let’s switch. I can’t handle just guarding.”

“No need. Zelreja, just block the entrance.”

Though the entrance to Peklo City was firmly sealed by the Snow and Ice Spirit Queen, they could not be certain it had blocked all enemies.

Thus, Blaugrunn insisted that at least one dragon must guard the entrance, and as a result, a dragon in human form was now crouching before it.

“Look at that human brat! Look at that sword! It looks like my tail! It ticks me off! I want to destroy it!”

Her hair, a color slightly darker than Arzenmacht’s silver, was similar. However, the color was that of an unrefined iron ore, a deeper tone than silver.

With her ponytail tied tight and her active attire, she was clearly a physical-type dragon, unlike Arzenmacht or Blaugrunn.

“How can the Steel Dragon feel bad watching a sword!”

“Hmm. Blaugrunn is right.”

Interested in all things made of iron, she was a kind of Steel Dragon known for overseeing all bladed weapons. Yet her words were much lighter than steel.

“Ugh! Just do it well! Blaugrunn, you’ve always been weak at finishing tasks! Arzenmacht, have you become too complacent partnering with that human kid? Hey, kid! Switch with me!”

Ram Hwajung did not even snort as she watched the impetuous woman shake her ponytail and spit out vehement words.

“Are you ignoring me, human?”

“…… Noisy.”

“N-noisy? Did you just call me noisy? Do you think I’ll let you off because you are a human girl!?”

“Ugh… like an older sister.”

Ram Hwajung shook her head.

Though Pyro and Igor were certainly formidable foes, neither Arzenmacht, Blaugrunn, nor Ram Hwajung was lacking in composure.

This team made a mistake in not considering the full picture.

If Leeha were here, they might have thought more deeply.

Three dragons and a top-ranking human were present, yet only Igor and Pyro showed up. Despite this, those two did not rush?

They soon found the answer to that question.

Click, click, click.

“Cluck-cluck, I agree with the girl. You’ve almost reached Ancient status, yet you’re this noisy.”

A figure with a Bluebeard walked with a staff.

Arzenmacht glared at him sharply.

“…… Le.”

Ram Hwajung also grabbed Arzenmacht’s sleeve from his side.

This place was suitable for revenge from the perpetual snow mountain, but neither moved easily.

“Le?! Le is really here? Bluebeard?”

“This is the first time someone has gotten tired of my name. Yes, my name is Le. Zelreja.”

Steel Dragon Zelreja, who had been reacting excessively, looked surprised.

As soon as Bluebeard mentioned her name, Zelreja’s expression changed instantly.

“Do I look like Zelreja to you, Le?”

────…!!!!

A flash of light burst forth.

Pyro and Igor turned their heads, hearing Bluebeard muttering curses.

“Damn. That crazy old man.”

* * *

Bluebeard lifted his hat slightly as a gesture of courtesy.

Of course, everyone knew it was just a performance devoid of sincerity.

“Do you find this amusing? Cluck-cluck, the metal dragon clan has it tough, serving an old king.”

“Why speak so harshly? It’s just a simple joke. Isn’t it better to live young?”

The Platinum Dragon Bahamut retained his composure even under Le’s provocation.

Bluebeard glanced around with slow, light movements.

To think that the one blocking the entrance to Peklo City was Bahamut. Realizing he had been deceived, anger flickered in Le’s eyes.

Bahamut smiled as he noticed this.
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“You think you’re the only one who can use tricks? Le, I figured you’d come in person. Naturally, you’d twist space, so I had to be here first.”

“…So that’s why you’re here first… and why you’re in this state now?”

Bluebeard pointed his staff towards a point in the night sky. Ram Hwajung, Igor, and Pyro turned their gaze to the end of the staff but could not discern anything.

────, ────!

Moments later, they saw a couple of flickers of lavender light.

“Right. If you know they’d twist space and I got here first… making a tear in that space would be a piece of cake.”

“Indeed! So that’s why you wanted to be here early, my lord!”

“Of course, Blaugrunn, ha-ha.”

Two figures appeared behind Bahamut. Naturally, they were dragons who had transformed into human form.

“No matter how much, that was too harsh, my lord! Such a frivolous tone. And your voice, too. When did I ever—”

“The lord’s remarks are beyond reproach, Zelreja.”

Arzenmacht silenced Zelreja.

Zelreja pouted and gave Blaugrunn a playful knock on the head.

“You should have stopped him! You should have said, ‘You need to use a deeper voice to play Zelreja nuna properly~’!”

“C-could I have possibly…? How could I—”

“Quiet, you fool!”

Ram Hwajung gazed at her intently.

Her appearance, closer to Tale than Shin Nara, clearly indicated her deep interest in combat.

Above all!

“…Identical.”


Ram Hwajung agreed that Bahamut’s performance was based on complete facts.

Zelreja tried to refute, but she fell silent as Bahamut lightly struck the ground with his staff.

She too was not without sense.

Besides, the other dragon who had come with Zelreja was an Ancient.

In other words, in addition to Bahamut, there was one Ancient Dragon, two Adults, and one Juvenile present.

Wasn’t the Juvenile Dragon Blaugrunn was essentially close to an Adult?

With Bahamut’s side having an advantage, the Demon King’s army would inevitably be at a disadvantage.

Only Bluebeard, Pyro, and Igor stood against the dragons. Just three.

Even if the two vampires were extremely powerful, the absolute disadvantage, even excluding Ram Hwajung’s factor, was undeniable.

As evidence, Pyro and Igor’s faces were stern, and Bluebeard had ceased his usual playful expression.

“I came to see a friend’s face after a long time, but this cold reception… I want to go back already, may I… be granted permission?”

“Ha, are you calling that a question? Your jokes have improved, Le.”

Bahamut’s white hair started to rise into the air as his laughter abruptly stopped.

“I shall leave not even your bone dust.”

Status effect: Spatial Binding (Enhanced). All space movement is restricted for 60 minutes.

“Pyro, Igor.”

Bluebeard also took off his hat. He placed his hat on the ground.

He had already reversed his grip on his staff.

Dark magic energy streamed from the tip of his staff.

Furthermore, he loosened his usually tightly done-up tuxedo’s tie and shirt buttons, transforming his formal elderly gentleman’s appearance into that of a beast.


“Survive on your own.”

Swoosh—

That was his last sentence.

As Bluebeard vanished, Bahamut’s figure also disappeared.

────────────────────

Thunder and lightning began to strike near the Cold Wind Mountain Range.

* * *

“What—”

Pyro was too shocked to speak.

Igor too had never seen Bluebeard’s ‘true power’, but he was less startled than Pyro.

“Ha-ha-ha! So we only need to take out four dragons? Are you scared, Pyro? Let’s go!”

He was fully aware of what he needed to do.

An unknown Ancient Dragon, Arzenmacht, Zelreja, Blaugrunn, and Ram Hwajung.

Handling these opponents would suffice.

Igor believed Bahamut would never interfere in their fight.

“Shut up. 〈Ice Age〉.”

Sharp ice shards erupted from Arzenmacht’s hands.

Taking deep breaths, Igor swung his sword. More akin to a club or a saw than a sword, his greatsword scattered the ice shards into pieces as it swung forcefully to and fro.

“We’ll assist. 『Slow Field』.”

“I’ll help too. 『Magnetic Chaser』!”


“Me too. 『Ice Ground』.”

Debuffs were essential to catch their fast speed.

Knowing this, the first spells focused on restricting movement, almost simultaneously.

The Ancient Copper Dragon used a magic spell to envelop the entire area in slow motion with his breath.

Blaugrunn used a tracking spell to make it difficult to avoid the magic, while Ram Hwajung transformed the combat field into a frictionless space.

In essence, Pyro and Igor found themselves in an awkward state, unable to flee or rush in.

“Give me that arrogant sword! I’ll place it in my collection!”

And then, the Steel Dragon Zelreja charged at them.

The size of the two-handed sword she wielded was by no means inferior to Igor’s weapon.

However, since Zelreja had transformed into her ‘human’ form compared to the giant Igor, her sword appeared even more massive and powerful.

“Kyahahaha! Ridiculous! They say a Steel Dragon’s tail is like a sword, but if you run away like a lizard cutting off its Tale, I’ll let you go!”

*Kwoooaahhh─*

The sheer impact of their swords clashing sent waves of blinding snow flying around.

The shockwaves from using skills were so intense that even the dragons staggered momentarily.

Pyro did not miss the moment when Arzenmacht’s concentration lightened.

“How many dragons have Igor, Faust, and I taken down together, and you think I’ll be beaten by just four lizards?”

If they were at a disadvantage, they couldn’t just use ultimate attacks. They needed to use skills that could defend and attack simultaneously!

『Flame Celestial Pillar』!”

His body, including his wings, ignited in flames.

The pillar of fire seemed as if it would pierce the sky, tearing through the nighttime darkness.

“Arzenmacht. I―”

“Leave it to me. Ram Hwajung?”

The Ancient Dragon, who was preparing a skill, was held back by Arzenmacht, who then called for Ram Hwajung.

“Yes, I will.”

The blue-haired girl was slowly walking forward.

Her body was enveloped in dark blue mana particles.

She had been waiting for the right moment to intervene in the battle while always considering the best response. This included scenarios where Pyro would use an immobilizing skill like Flame Celestial Pillar.

For her, it was a delicious prey.

“〈Abyssal Ice』.”

Pyro sensed Ram Hwajung’s formidable aura.

“You have completed second job advancement, have you?”

Despite this, he didn’t falter.

“Fine! I’ll pay you back for what happened on the snowy mountain. Huuooooo―!”

The flames engulfing his body grew even more intense.

“When black── ice── and!”

Simultaneously, darkness began to spread.

“When black──── flames ignite!”

Light dwindled in proportion to the heat.

“Let’s see── who will win! 『Infernal Flame Demon』!”

Eventually, the light illuminating the night sky vanished entirely.

The light emitted by the Infernal Flame Demon seemed to absorb all the surrounding light.

*Fwooaaaa──*

In the next moment, even that tremendous light disappeared. Simultaneously, the faces of the dragons began to distort.

Arzenmacht, Blaugrunn, and the Ancient Copper Dragon were well aware.

Having been through the Second Great Human-Demon War.

“……『Infernal Flame Demon』……?”

“That, that skill─ it resembles─ something from 20 years ago!”

“Exactly! It’s….. that human’s technique who endured the red dragon’s and black dragon’s breath simultaneously….”

Moreover, Pyro wasn’t an ordinary user.

Not only was he skilled enough to be included in the New Continent Expedition, but he was also a hero’s descendant.

This meant that he possessed outstanding abilities, allowing him to merge skills with demonic powers into new ones if he knew the direction of the skills he held and those he needed to learn.

“Did you think I would remain stagnant? You’re not the only one who’s grown stronger. I’ve been seething since that day too.”

“Casting… still…”

If spells and spells clashed, if the skill activated, Ram Hwajung was confident she would win.

But if she was struck down before activating her skill? No matter how powerful a second-job advancement skill she held, it would be useless!

Despite this, Ram Hwajung gritted her teeth and didn’t retreat.

“I will.”

Silver particles began to gather around Arzenmacht, who had approached her unnoticed.

Shaking off the little worry she had, Ram Hwajung focused on her casting.

In the sky above, intermittent flashes of light were still flickering.

It wasn’t moonlight or starlight; it was the waves of light emitted from the clash between Bluebeard and Bahamut.

Adding to that were the aftereffects unleashed from the duel between Zelreja and Igor!

The vicinity of the Cold Wind Mountain Range had literally turned into a battlefield.

*Whistle*

“Kaha, haa, haa.”

And then, the war suddenly ended.

Bluebeard had abruptly appeared behind Igor and Pyro.

“Hm?”

Bluebeard hurriedly picked up the hat he had thrown and put it on, then turned around.

“Igor! Pyro!”

“Eh?! What’s going on suddenly!?”

“There’s no law that says we must die. Brace yourselves!”

As soon as he finished speaking, shouts echoed from all directions.

“Protect Bluebeard!”

“Do not let Pyro and Igor die!”

“Kill them all!”

Users emerged from various parts of the Cold Wind Mountain Range.

The one leading them had already thrown off his mask and was commanding them upfront.

“It’s an order from Oka! Throw your bodies to buy us time! The more you die, the more you kill, the greater the rewards!”

Sasuke’s voice resonated loudly.

The users from Yamato, eyes blazing, charged forward.

They weren’t top rankers or famously known outsiders, but there were many well-known users within their own sphere.

These individuals couldn’t withstand a Dragon’s Tale swipe in a one-on-one battle, but when their numbers were overwhelming, it was another story altogether.

The number of users following Sasuke easily surpassed a hundred.

Igor and Pyro quickly grasped the situation.

*Swoosh*

Igor’s sword swung wildly, but his strength was undiminished! Zelreja had to momentarily distance himself.

“Kahahaha! Steel Dragon! I’ll take your Tale next time!” At such a high speed, close-quarters combat made it difficult to re-engage once one side decided to retreat.

As Igor moved close to Bluebeard, Pyro also began to flap his wings.

Black flames still blazed from his body.

“Consider your life saved.”

Pyro muttered.

Killing Ram Hwajung was satisfying, but if he were to die afterward, it would mean nothing. More importantly, Bluebeard was already planning a retreat. Displaying emotional outbursts at this moment would pose significant risks to himself as well.

“Ram Hwajung! Do not let the Flame Demon escape! Tie him up—”

“〈Javelin Throw〉!”

“〈Fire Strike〉!”

Arzenmacht attempted to assist Ram Hwajung’s skills to manifest perfectly. However, facing the combined assault from Shinobigumi and Yamato wasn’t easy to ignore. He eventually had to redirect his magic.

“Ugh— Insolent ants! 〈Blizzard〉!”

“Leeeeeee—!”

As Bahamut’s roar filled the sky, neither Bluebeard, Pyro, nor Igor could be seen in front of the Pecklo Cave entrance of the Cold Wind Mountain Range City.

Only the scattered corpses of Yamato users laid there.

* * *

“Grr, hehehe… Bahamut must be in quite a rush. It had to be that way.”

Blue blood dripped from Bluebeard’s mouth. It was natural for Pyro, but even Igor was seeing such a wound for the first time.

“Are you alright, Count?”

“It’s better this way. Hahaha, it’s better.”

In response to Igor’s question, Bluebeard revealed the end of his staff. White liquid was smeared on it.

“I may be injured, but… it will take Bahamut quite a while to recover fully.”

“Isn’t that a problem? Le, without you—”

“Calm down, you foolish men.”

Pyro was genuinely worried about him, but Bluebeard still appeared composed.

He spoke quietly.

“Let’s return first. Find Faust, contact Ghibrid. Then from there…”

Their primary goal was to awaken Pyrot-Cocri if possible.

Bluebeard had also prepared to some extent for this journey. He knew the Dragon would definitely guard the place. That was the reason he came in person.

The issue was that Bahamut responded more aggressively than predicted. Consequently, Bluebeard decided to expedite his plans from now on.

“Hehehe, I’ve got to prepare a gift for that Bahamut. I want to see how delighted he will be with the surprise being faster than expected.”
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Crunch, crunch―!

The sound of leaves being trampled echoed loudly.

Despite moving at a fairly fast pace, no other significant sounds were heard. Moreover, they had the luxury of regulating their breathing, so there was no major strain.

“We will rest once we reach that ridge!”

There was no particular response to Fernand’s shout.

It wasn’t because of the accumulated fatigue from traveling for more than a day. The real reason their conversation had dwindled and their movements had become more urgent was due to a whisper that came to Leeha.

‘Bluebeard has appeared. Bahamut is injured. Bluebeard also seems to have been injured.’

News that Bluebeard, Igor, and Pyro had appeared in the Frostwind Mountains.

At dawn, Leeha had immediately relayed the information to Blaugrunn and Ram Hwajung.

Bailephus, who also received reports from the dragons, had shared a detailed picture of the situation with Leeha.

‘Lightning. Not visible. Fast. Flash. These were the only words I heard, so I had no idea what it was about.’

Ram Hwajung had summarized the battle between Bahamut and Bluebeard succinctly yet critically. However, it was too concise for Leeha to fully grasp.

‘A speed so quick it’s nearly invisible… I thought it was merely an automatic response to long-range attacks. But to handle close-range attacks in that manner? Damn, so how should we go about this?’

A speed nearly impossible to track with the naked eye.

This was also made clear through Blaugrunn and Bailephus’ descriptions. It suggested that no user could easily face such speed.

How could they possibly deal with that?

For long-range dealer jobs, it was an almost insurmountable dilemma.

‘And it’s not just that. Pyro is also…’

Flame Demon(炎魔).

‘Is that the name of his second job change? Or just a skill name?’


Another name for the heir of the 2nd Human-Demon War hero, the Flamesorcerer.

A legendary figure who had charged ahead, cloaking himself with the breath of two dragons!

His attacks were so formidable that hardly anyone could respond effectively.

Although Pyro hadn’t merged the dragon’s breath to use it, he was still equally threatening.

‘Creating an applied version mixed with magic energy(魔氣). Tsk, if only he were an ally, it would have been so convenient.’

And what about Igor?

He fought toe-to-toe with Zelreja, said to be the strongest in hand-to-hand combat among the metal dragon clan’s Steel Dragons.

‘Well… Is it really that surprising?’

After all, he had already dealt with numerous Chromatic Dragons near Minis. This level of competence might be expected.

However, the problem was.

‘That Steel Dragon was younger than Arzenmacht but more skilled.’

Steel Dragon Zelreja.

According to Blaugrunn, ‘In pure hand-to-hand combat, there is no one in the metal dragon clan’s Adult-class who can match her, and she can even contend with some Ancient Dragons.’

This meant that the physical abilities of Igor in his night form were at least at the Adult Dragon level, and comparable to the Ancient level.

By now, Leeha also felt like his head was about to explode.

He had managed to hunt an Adult Dragon himself, but it was a Lich Dragon created by Faust, and it was still in the process of transforming back into a dragon at the time.

“Huuuh… Huuuuu…”

It had been possible because it was a sniping situation; if it were a direct 1:1 confrontation with full awareness from both sides, it would be a different story.

Having heard Leeha’s account, Luger and Kidd were also reflecting on the events of the previous night in the Frostwind Mountains.

‘Still, we have the upper hand. I can handle an Adult Dragon myself. Hmph, if a few more show up then…’


‘In the worst-case scenario, if I just keep their attention on me, then…’

However, their perspectives slightly diverged from Leeha’s.

Luger and Kidd exchanged glances. Their eyes focused on one person.

‘Ha Leeha will catch them.’

‘Ha Leeha will hit the target.’

Suddenly, Leeha, finding himself the subject of two people’s attention, blinked.

“Huh? What? Why are both of you suddenly looking at me?”

“Cough! It’s nothing. You fool.”

“When did I ever look at you? Don’t be so presumptuous.”

Luger and Kidd, feeling awkward, quickly ran ahead. They had already reached the ridge that Fernand had pointed out.

“How much farther from our current position?”

Fernand broke off a branch and began drawing a map on the ground.

With just a few strokes of the branch, he created an impressive sketch based on the surrounding mountain ranges, notable trees, rocks, and clusters of plants he had discovered.

In this area, where no maps existed, this sketch was the only useful reference.

Naturally, all the users were trying to memorize it.

“From this point, it shouldn’t take more than three hours.”

“Three hours… We spent all of yesterday moving and half of today as well. So, if we had moved without resting, we could have made it within 24 hours. Since the direction is this way―”

Sliiiide.

Fernand nodded and drew a line based on Elizabeth’s words.

At the end of the line was nothing.


Bare ground.

However, all the users staring at the ground felt like they had discovered a new world.

“Let’s take a short break and have a sip of water before continuing!”

They were expected to arrive around 3 PM.

Everyone was excited at this moment, but Leeha felt a bit of regret.

“Is it today?”

“What?”

Elizabeth, who had been staring at Leeha’s face, spoke up.

Seeing his confused expression, she gestured towards the Black Bass.

“Black.”

She mouthed silently.

Charging rate.

Leeha, who had been dazed, slowly began to smile.

Feeling regret because the charging rate dropped? The charging rate was still at 49.9%.

Losing 10% was painful, but as long as the Black Bass wasn’t asleep, conversations were still possible.

So, what did he need to do right now?

“Maybe… we should have a little chat?”

Though he was looking at Elizabeth, his hand pressed firmly on the Black Bass’s breech.

Elizabeth smiled and replied.

“Sure.”

* * *

“What? I died? Give me that thing for a moment.”

“W-wait! Not everyone knows Black has woken up yet…”

Elizabeth tried to take the rifle from Leeha, but he didn’t surrender it easily.

They had intentionally walked a bit away from the group for this conversation, but Luger and Kidd had already noticed and were glancing their way.

“But you also called it ‘Black’?”

“Well, my name’s Bess. I didn’t want to give my name to something with such a sinister voice. Black really hates that name. But it’s not my problem.”

She spoke nonchalantly.

Leeha suddenly felt like he understood why the Black Bass hated the name ‘Black’.

In the past, what was it like when she was Black Bass’s partner?

“So, how did you cross the eighth stage?”

“The eighth stage?”

“That, moving beyond 49.9% to the next level.”

“Ah! You call that the eighth stage?”

“Well, not exactly… It’s just the sequence I gave it.”

Strictly speaking, it was a condition inside the seventh quest. Leeha felt a bit embarrassed when Elizabeth found the name he used interesting.

Her expression became more serious from that moment.

“The final one beyond 49.9%… It can’t be done by normal shooting.”

“Then how?”

“I maintained the 49.9% state for quite a long time. Even knowing only about the Lope continent at that time. Yet, I could never surpass that last step.”

“Ah…”

Despite achieving 49.9% in the old continent and having it decrease by 10% every five days in Middle Earth time, she managed to maintain the charge rate for a “long period.”

To think she could do that back when there were no rare monsters of the New Continent or even vampires. Leeha was once again impressed by Elizabeth.

As if she had read his expression, Elizabeth asked,

“Do you know when I first achieved the 50% charge?”

Leeha gazed at her face for a moment. What event could have caused her seemingly unchanging charge rate to surge?

There was probably only one “major event” Elizabeth had experienced.

“The 2nd Human-Demon War… It must have been more than just ordinary monsters. At a minimum, it had to be monsters on the same level as Toon or higher, or maybe—”

“The Demon King’s Fragment itself, that’s right.”

Elizabeth looked at Leeha with admiration. Leeha asked excitedly,

“Did you defeat a high-ranking officer? The only Demon King’s Fragment I’ve seen in operation was Bluebeard! Were there others apart from Toon or Bathory? Or an officer from Ghibrid or Pyrot-Cocri?”

As Leeha asked in an urgent tone, Elizabeth laughed softly.

“Oh dear, maybe I need to retract my statement about the right answer?”

“Pardon? Didn’t you just say it was correct?”

“I only mentioned what should have followed your conjecture a bit prematurely.”

“What should have followed… the Demon King’s Fragment!?”

The word Elizabeth responded with was unmistakable.

Due to his slightly raised voice, the users and NPCs around them turned their attention to Leeha and Elizabeth.

After calming them down with hand gestures, Leeha lowered his voice again.

“That’s… impossible! The Demon King’s Fragment! Increasing Black Bass’s charge rate requires killing the target… Aren’t the three Demon King’s Fragments all alive? Or maybe there’s a fourth one—”

“What? Haha, your imagination is quite vivid. It’s true that there are only three Demon King’s Fragments. But do you understand why they’re called such? They’re special. They create monsters, fuse and separate them at will… You know that, right?”

Elizabeth emphasized their special nature by explaining the Demon King’s Fragments.

The explanation was meant to underscore their uniqueness. That’s why such special monsters made it possible.

“So, you mean… just hitting them…”

Before he could finish, Elizabeth nodded.

You don’t have to kill them.

There exist beings that increase the charge rate simply by being hit. And it wasn’t just an ordinary charge rate.

‘The wall to surpass 50%… I see.’

Entities that could help break the 49.9% barrier!

Leeha smiled meaningfully.

Then he whispered softly to Black Bass’s bolt.

“You said you couldn’t tell me what sacrifices I needed to break the 50% barrier? You claimed not to know… Something about it changing depending on growth, and yet it was something so simple—”

—Foolish… You think it’s simple. Contractor, you may have awakened me quickly, but you must also understand that you lack experience. The moment you hit the Demon King’s Fragment with a shot… you might find yourself in a situation where I lose my contractor. It might be faster to find ‘another sacrifice’. The most certain method you’ve developed while charging till now…—

“Oh, you didn’t want to tell me because I might die?”

—Just to avoid falling asleep again… Hahaha…—

“Of course.”

In the end, he realized there were two conditions for breaking the 50% barrier.
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One, hit the Demon King’s Fragment more than once.

This was a basic condition, unrelated to the growth method.

It meant that regardless of how one had been fulfilling the charge rate, as long as the Demon King’s Fragment was active, hitting them was sufficient.

And two, according to one’s growth method, find a specialized, unique sacrifice.

This had to be seen as a special condition.

Depending on the actions taken the most to increase the charge rate of the Black Bass, all the users up to now must have been different from each other.

“For now, is it vampires for me? They’re the ones I’ve captured the most while raising it to 49.9%.”

It wasn’t the clone of Pyrot-Cocri, nor some dragon of Faust.

Leeha was certain that it had to be of the vampire lineage.

“If I shoot one with similar mighty power and importance in the world as hitting the Demon King’s Fragment… huh?”

Suddenly, a name flashed through Leeha’s mind.

Rarity similar to the Demon King’s Fragment.

Mighty power.

Influence on the world.

A vampire possessing all of those qualities.

At this point, the closest enemy to that!

“… Definitely… better than the Demon King’s Fragment, I guess?”

Whether it was the first or the second time, it had to be faced anyway.

If it was an inevitable battle, finding a way to use it as a sacrifice for the charge rate seemed like a reasonable method, didn’t it?

But why did it feel like they he already broken through the 50% barrier?


With a pleasant excitement, Leeha asked Elizabeth.

“So, what happened after 50%? How about the charging?”

“From there, it changes again. While my case and yours might not be the same… once it surpasses 50%, monsters aren’t needed anymore.”

“Well, so…”

Leeha asked, a bit puzzled.

“Do you mean you only have to hit the Demon King’s Fragment without monsters?”

“No. It means it’s sufficient to activate it up to 50%.”

Elizabeth spoke firmly.

Leeha tilted his head.

“Didn’t you try to activate it to 100%?”

“Yes, I didn’t.”

She smiled brightly. For Leeha, it was quite a baffling situation.

If she had said that there was no big difference between achieving more than 50% and hitting 100%, hence there was no need to do it, it could have been understandable.

But how should he accept the idea of not needing to do it when she hadn’t even tried?

“Well, um… alright. I’ll keep your advice in mind, senior.”

“Sure. You’ll understand once you surpass 50%. Black Bass… craves too much blood.”

Black Bass desired blood.

Beyond 50%, it didn’t even need to be awakened anymore.

What was the charging condition required by Elizabeth?

‘Was it too much that she decided not to charge anymore?’


The question remained unsolved for now.

Even if asked, she wouldn’t disclose the information since she wasn’t an NPC.

Besides, Leeha knew better than anyone that Middle Earth wasn’t a kind game.

“By the way, you activated it really quickly, didn’t you? I couldn’t do it that fast back when I tried. How did you already unlock it when, last time, you hadn’t even learned the ‘Ghost in the Shell’? Impressive, impressive, our dongsaeng.”

Elizabeth patted Leeha’s head.

Even though he was being treated like a child, Leeha didn’t feel bad. Above all, there was something he was curious about.

“Then, can you tell me objectively?”

“Huh? What?”

Last night, the debate near the campfire between Brown and Browless had piqued Leeha’s curiosity.

“Compared to your son… how do I stand?”

How strong was the current 《Arcane Sniper》?

If not using Arcane Bullet, comparing the general shooting skill and destructive power, what would his capabilities be?

Elizabeth gave a sly smile.

“You’d win.”

“Huh? What? Really?”

Leeha, taken aback, asked, and even Brown cast a glance at him. Elizabeth nodded but didn’t fail to add a condition.

“Yes, in a simple sniper battle, Kyle would win, but it would certainly be a variable-ridden fight. My son is not yet accustomed to such battles.”

“Then, are you saying I’d lose in a straightforward 1:1 sniping battle based solely on shooting skills?”

Leeha’s pride didn’t let him just accept her words. She contemplated with a seriously thoughtful expression.

“Ummm… No! Still, I think you will win.”


“Ohoho! That’s a surprisingly high evaluation! I thought you would definitely say I would lose!”

Leeha’s face brightened instantly.

This was, so to speak, the ranking evaluated by the Middle Earth system.

The authority held by the AI of the NPC most skilled in shooting! Compared to that, it meant that Leeha was not lacking at all compared to Kyle!

Elizabeth watched Leeha with amusement and raised her index finger.

“But!”

With a clunk, she pulled out the gun she had slung over her back.

The rifle that could become Arcane Sniper.

Luger and Kidd, who had quietly sneaked up to Leeha while adjusting their speed, also looked at the gun.

“If Kyle holds this, you’ll lose. No, even if you gather all our other juniors… You can’t defeat Kyle.”

Elizabeth looked back and forth between Leeha, Luger, and Kidd and spoke definitively.

Feeling her gaze, the Three Musketeers all bristled.

“Are you saying we’ll lose even if he doesn’t use the Arcane Bullet?”

“Kehaha! Not even in a 3:1, let alone three one-on-one matches?”

“We have gotten quite strong ourselves, senior. Unless it’s the Arcane Bullet that can hit without being confined by space…”

A common simulation ran in the minds of the three.

『Rapidfire』, Desperado Kidd.

『Pierce』, Cannoneer Luger.

『Accuracy』, White Reaper Leeha.

Someone who could win in a 3:1 against these three?

They had confidence.

There would not be more than five in the entirety of Middle Earth who could win in a 3:1 battle without interference from anyone else.

One Bahamut, three Demon King’s Fragments, after counting those four fingers, only one spot would remain.

—Give that last spot to a brat who doesn’t even know how to take off his hood? Ridiculous.

—…They might only have memories from the old days. If all they know is the image of us once defeated by Brown, then it’s understandable to say such things.

—But you know, considering that… Leeha whispered with Luger and Kidd, then turned his head. Elizabeth was smiling confidently.

As if saying, ‘I know exactly what you guys are thinking.’

Really, was it just based on old memories?

She already knew they had encountered the Lich Dragons on their way here.

Yet, she still exuded confidence?

The three turned their gaze towards Kyle simultaneously.

The rifle slung over his shabby robe and hood was anything but special.

‘When using that gun, I can beat him in a one-on-one… But if he changes the gun, he can win a 3:1?’

Ultimately, only one answer came to mind.

This time, the trio’s gaze turned to Elizabeth. More specifically, it focused on the gun she was holding.

“Arcane Sniper’s rifle…”

“Hehe, indeed the one who holds that will―”

“End this game.”

Kidd, Luger, and Leeha glared at each other.

Their eyes met, expressing their unwillingness to yield on this matter. Just then, Fernand let out a scream.

“Uwaagh!”

Thunk───…

He was thrown backward.

“Fernand!”

“What, what’s going on? Human compass! What happened?”

“Prepare for battle!”

Is it an enemy surprise attack?

They could judge later. They mechanically and reflexively adopted a defensive posture.

“Ow… It hurts, what the―this is embarrassing.”

On the other hand, the attacked(?) Fernand remained surprisingly composed.

“Are you alright?”

“No, I wasn’t attacked…”

New Elements and Characters:

Leeha took out a potion and offered it, but Fernand declined it with a smile. Fernand slowly surveyed the surroundings.

They were in a vast, empty plain.

The types of plants were quite unfamiliar, but the terrain of the grassland remained largely unchanged.

Elizabeth and Brown watched him with faces full of expectation. Only after meeting their gaze did Fernand become certain.

“Here it is.”

“What is here?”

“The entrance to Saur Land… This is the boundary.”

He carefully stretched his hand into the air.

*Vuuuuuuuuu-*

Like a shield-type skill, an invisible barrier touched his hand. In the context of Middle Earth, it wasn’t particularly surprising.

It was only slightly different from what he had seen before countless times.

“A shield without mana…?”

The one who felt this difference most keenly was, as expected, the Ancient Dragon Bailephus.

—

“Is it remarkable? Not feeling mana has happened several times before—”

“No! It’s not just that I can’t feel mana. It’s different from that. It’s not about detection; there’s no flow of mana in this place at all!”

Bailephus’ amazement was genuine.

Even Luger, who thought he had found something to tease about after a long time, was so moved and shocked by his expression that he couldn’t say another word.

“Is it… really that amazing?”

“Amazing? This would be like—if I were to compare it to your humans’ buildings, it would be like a house with only a roof. Is that possible?”

“Uhm… no, it’s not possible.”

A roof can’t exist without walls or pillars.

The users finally understood why Bailephus was snorting and excited.

If there had been any users with a magician job class, their reaction would have been much stronger than Leeha’s party. Unfortunately, no one in their group actively utilized mana.

“Ha Leeha! Quickly! 〈Polymorph: In Memory〉!”

*Clang!*

“Huh, transformation magic all of a sudden?”

Bailephus used the spell, urging Leeha. The sudden skill effect made humans step back with their eyes covered. Leeha rummaged through his bag with a somewhat amusing feeling and pulled out an item.

“Bailephus-nim! If you transform directly… uh…”

Leeha, who took out Toon’s vocal cords, stood dazed for a moment.

『Hurry, hurry and give it to me!』

Bailephus impatiently transformed into Toon’s form, an image deeply embedded in everyone’s memory.

“Haha! You’ve gone completely senile, so senile!”

“I never thought you’d transform into Toon.”

Watching Bailephus flail Toon’s long arms around, Luger laughed, holding his stomach. Kidd tipped his hat down, finding it somehow embarrassing to watch.

Elizabeth, next to Luger, was laughing merrily, while Browless and Brown looked deeply embarrassed.

Among them, there was another user who couldn’t handle the gaze fixed on him.

『Fine, I’ll blow it!』

“N-no, partner!”

Seeing his partner snatching the vocal cords from Leeha, Alexander cried out in agony.

As Leeha diligently took screenshots of the rare sight of the top-ranking player being embarrassed, he thought, ‘Ugh, I hope this captures well. This is a once-in-a-lifetime chance to see Alexander make that face!’

His desire to boast(?) to Kijung and the others around him surged.

『Prepare yourselves, everyone!』

Though Bailephus was as excited as a child, he was still an Ancient Dragon. He reminded them of the tension required to brace for an unexpected situation, and finally made use of Toon’s vocal cords.

Having Toon’s form and holding Toon’s vocal cords, he breathed mana and air together into them.

『Aaaah—Aaaahhhhh—!』

A roar resembling both speech and a simple scream, ambiguous in its nature.

The reproduction of Toon’s dinosaur-like roar by Bailephus caused the users to shudder once more.

It would have had the same effect on those within the boundary as well.

“Something… is coming.”

About three minutes after Toon’s roar echoed, Leeha’s eyes caught sight of something.
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“It indeed has a summoning function, but―”

“There are many of them.”

『Hmm… For now, let’s maintain this form. We need to be able to respond immediately based on their reactions.』

“H-However, I don’t think there’s a need to prepare for battle right away! Let’s approach them peacefully first! It’s not beneficial to show too much hostility!”

While Alexander, Kidd, and Bailephus were tense, Fernand alone insisted on staying a bit more relaxed.

A seasoned adventurer, well-versed in exploring unfamiliar places, knew that showing hostility to the natives from the start led to no good.

“Those are…”

“Are they the Saurus tribe, kin of Toon?”

“If each one possesses strength similar to Toon… this could be a tough battle.”

Elizabeth, Brown, and Browless were no exception.

Since they had only encountered dinosaurs as ‘enemies’, both users and NPCs had to stay highly alert.

“At least, they are not too many. Around twelve, I reckon. The two in the center have a bit more vibrant hues, and the other ten look similar… The ones in the center are probably important figures―I mean, dinosaurs.”

Among them, only Leeha was not tense.

“You’re quite calm, Leeha.”

“Well… I feel there’s no need to be that nervous.”

Leeha smiled reassuringly at Browless.

“Why is that? Is there something else?”

Luger, whose cobalt-blue python’s muzzle was already aimed at the enemy, asked irritably.

Leeha laughed while looking at him.

“Because I’m here.”


“W-What? Jeez, that’s not even funny.”

“No, no! I’m not saying I’ll handle it all! I mean, it’s safe because I’m here!”

As the dinosaurs gradually became clearer, their footsteps could be heard louder. Thump, thump────────!

The sound of the dinosaurs’ footsteps was getting louder.

If just facing a single Toon generated a noise that was unbearable, what if twelve dinosaurs, about 40 meters tall, charged simultaneously?

The users felt as if they were experiencing an earthquake.

“Oh! They are not just vibrant― they are equipped with something!”

Leeha’s eyes now could clearly distinguish their forms.

The same went for Kidd.

“The helmets, the chest, the abdomen, and the thigh areas are covered; we should see it as armor.”

“Haha, so Toon used to run around naked? Just imagining it is disgusting.”

“… Did you have to say that out loud?”

Leeha rebuked Luger.

Their appearances were consistent.

Huge carnivorous dinosaurs with extended arms. Although grotesque, the users had become accustomed to this exterior from seeing Toon frequently.

Thump…!

“Uh, they stopped?”

After running for a while, they halted.

Gulp, just as someone swallowed nervously, a shout emerged from the group.

『Who are you to appear in the form and voice of the Anti-King!』


The Saurus’ roar threw the users into a panic.

“Anti-King?”

“They said Anti-King?”

『Hmm, was Toon’s form seen as hostile by them?』

Just as Bailephus comprehended, Leeha slapped his forehead in realization.

“Oh no! So Toon himself is…! Bailephus, please use the amplifying spell! Amplify my voice!”

“Amplify? What kind of stunt are you trying to pull now?”

“Luger, just stay quiet for a bit! Bailephus, hurry!”

『Are you sure this is okay?』

“Yes! If we’re late—not good” 『In three seconds, if you don’t answer, we will consider you an Anti-King’s follower and attack!』

“We’ll get attacked!”

“Prepare for battle! Assume they have the same skills as Toon! Keep a distance and aim from afar!”

『Understood.』

As the group descended into chaos, Bailephus cast his spell on Leeha.

As NPCs and users, including Browless, began to scatter, Leeha shouted.

‘I really am a fool!’

The reason why Leeha had told Luger to trust him was simple.

〈Achievement: The Final Moments of a Saurus Traitor (S)〉

Congratulations!

You confirmed the existence of the ‘Saurus tribe’, a race known to be extinct and mentioned only in legends. Although he revealed his identity as a Saurus through his death, the fact that his identity was confirmed would make every archaeologist and biologist cheer!


What kind of kingdom does the Saurus tribe have, and where and how do they live their social lives? The enthusiasts of Middle Earth awaited your report eagerly.

**Reward: 25 stat points**

Saurus Tribe Royal Family Affinity +20%

Permission to travel within the Saurus Tribe kingdom

You were the first to achieve the title of ‘The Final Moments of a Saurus Traitor’.

This achievement would be recorded in the hall of fame up to the third registrant, applying 200% of the original effect to them.

**Effect: 50 stat points**

Saurus Tribe Royal Family Affinity +40%

Because of the achievement, the Final Moments of a Saurus Traitor!

You believed that resolving the issue would be easy since you possessed achievements that granted privileges and affinity with the Saurus Tribe’s royal family.

But this was the mistake that occurred because of that.

You didn’t consider what Toon meant to the Saurus Tribe. Initially, Bailephus should not have taken on the appearance of Toon, the ‘prodigal son.’

『Bailephus! Undo the transformation!』

More importantly, Leeha realized another fact.

Why did the affinity with the ‘royal family’ increase, instead of the Saurus Tribe?

This implied that Toon was part of a ruling lineage of the Saurus Tribe. One that was in conflict with the current ruling members.

Swoosh…

When Bailephus, clueless about the situation, returned to his human form, Leeha shouted with all his might.

『I am Ha Leeha, the human who killed Toon, the prodigal son of the Saurus Tribe!』

Claiming to have killed Toon.

That needed to be stated first.

They didn’t move. Leeha rummaged through his bag again.

“Here is the evidence, a dagger made from Toon’s claws! And a piece of Toon’s skin!”

What he pulled out from the bag was a piece of Toon’s skin. Leeha held it up high, waving it like a flag.

Thunk… Thunk… Thunk…

Ten dinosaurs slowly walked towards the group.

Among them, some were bigger than Toon. As the distance closed, their shadows engulfed everyone.

『We’ll check.』

『Yes! Here it is.』

Leeha humbly placed the items and slowly backed away.

The group followed Leeha’s movements. The distance between them now was roughly 50 meters, but for the Saurus Tribe, it was ‘within arm’s reach.’

『They look similar to Toon…』

『But there’s a difference…』

They didn’t move from that distance.

The skin, vocal bone, and the dagger made from Toon’s claw, which Leeha had placed on the ground, floated up and drifted toward them.

『Ma-magic… Is Toon able to use magic too?』

Bailephus was the most surprised as expected. He couldn’t help it.

‘Toon was already as strong as any dragon without magic.’

‘Damn it, is this a game? How is this balanced? If there are hundreds, thousands of such beings, how are we supposed to handle it?’

‘Quiet! We’re not even fighting them, so stop freaking out! If they join us, it’s a huge gain!’

The Three Musketeers whispered and bickered. But there was some truth to their words.

All of them looked like Toon, and if there were thousands of such beings?

That would mean a thousand entities equivalent to Ancient Dragons suddenly appearing in the Middle Earth universe.

If they sided with either the Demon King’s army or the humans?

‘Wouldn’t that be game over?’

The Sacred Alliance would be torn apart, and all the kingdoms of the Old Continent would fall.

Or, all the Demon King’s fragments would be obliterated, bringing peace.

Certainly, a thousand Ancient Dragons held that level of power. But there was an even bigger problem…

‘They mentioned a kingdom. So, they wouldn’t be talking about kingship with just hundreds or thousands, would they?’

A kingdom surpassing tribes and villages.

How many of them could there be?

Leeha felt sweat trickling down his back.

It wasn’t just Leeha. All the other users with similar thoughts were just as tense.

Whether the users thought that way or not, the Saurus carefully examined the items collected from Toon’s body.

After thoroughly inspecting them from all angles in mid-air, they finally turned their heads.

* * *

『It is confirmed. These are indeed the bones and skin of the Anti-King.』

『It was certain that the Anti-King had not changed!』

『Aaaaah──────────!』

Boom— Boom— Boom—!

After all the reports were completed, two magnificent entities at a distance finally started to approach the party. One dinosaur wore a golden helmet and armor, while the other dinosaur wore a slightly duller bronze helmet and armor.

They watched Leeha’s party intently.

『The one who defeated the Anti-King, what is your name?』

『It’s Ha… Ha Leeha!』

『Good. Haha Leeha. You and your companions’—』

『No! It’s Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha!』

『Hmm?』

The dinosaur with the golden helmet tilted its head.

Leeha, awkwardly positioned, shouted again, 『It’s Ha. Lee. Ha.』

“Even in this situation…”

Browless, pressing down his hat, shook his head.

Except for Luger, who was mocking Leeha, everyone else averted their gaze from him. After momentarily observing this scene, the dinosaur with the golden helmet finally spoke.

『Very well. Ha Leeha, the one who defeated the Anti-King. You and your companions are permitted to enter.』

Rumble…

There was a brief quake.

It was instinctively felt that this was the undoing of the barrier.

“Alright. Let’s go—”

“I’ll go first!”

“No, I’m going!”

Just as Bailephus tried to take the lead, a sudden competition ensued from the rear.

The NPCs looked puzzled, but all the users knew.

If their speeds were similar, no matter how fast they were, they couldn’t enter the barrier before those who were right in front of it!

The one closest to the barrier, standing nearest to the Saurus tribe, took the first step forward.

Boom—!

You have acquired the achievement: First Discoverer – Saur Land.

“Yay! It’s mine!”

It had to be Leeha, of course.

“Damned bastard.”

“Well, it’s not like Ha Leeha wouldn’t have known.”

“We wouldn’t have entered without him anyway. It’s not something to feel jealous about.”

Luger and Fernand expressed their disappointment.

The only one acknowledging Leeha was Kidd.

“Trying to act cool after attempting to go in yourself.”

“Ahem. Who, who said that? It’s a baseless accusation.”

The problem was that Kidd had darted forward even more than Luger and Fernand.

All NPCs were staring in bewilderment at the sudden uproar in front of the barrier.

“Humans’ disgrace.”

Only Alexander passed them with a dignified expression.

As they all entered the barrier, a sound of vibrating air followed again.

The dinosaur with the golden helmet scanned everyone quickly. His gaze fixed on a human wearing a hood.

『There is someone with a peculiar aura. A potential threat?』

“No! He’s just, just a little unwell!”

Elizabeth quickly spoke, blocking Kyle. Before the dinosaur with the golden helmet could say anything, she preemptively brought up the main issue.

“A child with a disease we hope to cure right here.”

『Hmm.』

The dinosaur with the golden helmet pondered for a moment. Leeha felt as though he glanced at him.

Leeha nodded and added to Elizabeth’s words.

“You can trust us.”

At this point, the only one they could trust was Leeha.

With just a word from him, the dinosaur with the golden helmet nodded.

『Take them.』

────────────……!!!!

“Whoa!?”

“W-What is this!?”

As soon as he finished speaking, ten dinosaurs used magic.

Bubbles-like shapes formed around each party member, capturing them and lifting them into the air.

The colossal dinosaurs, each about 40 meters tall, held one bubble each and began to move swiftly.

About 3 minutes later, they finally saw it.

“It’s… truly a balance breaker.”

What they saw from afar was a city.

Even at a conservative estimate, it was nearly as large as the capital of Fibiel, Aelstock.
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As they approached the city, Leeha realized once again that the country named Saur Land and the existence of the Saurus race had a high probability of disrupting Middle Earth’s balance.

“Why are you so silent? At what level is it? Something absurd like B+ popped up, right?”

“Are you hoping for that, Luger? More than anything, a place like this can’t be simply B+ grade… No matter how conservatively you estimate, it would exceed A+ level. There is even a possibility it could be S- grade.”

Luger’s and Kidd’s attention bells were right beside Leeha, and they were trying to deduce from Leeha’s expression about the achievements he had just unlocked.

However, Leeha had to keep silent.

〈Achievement: First Discovery―Saur Land (S+)〉

Congratulations! You have discovered an unprecedented location. This is the country where ancient creatures who ruled this world, the dinosaurs, proficient in all civilizations and magic, reside! This is Saur Land! The mere fact that the Saurus race, whose existence has barely been verified, congregates here, possessing a civilization more advanced than humans, magic stronger than dragons, and a natural affinity more harmonious than elves, seems impossible even in a novel. The only one who can address all beings in this world who consider themselves lofty is you, who discovered Saur Land.

It is natural that gigantic monsters, bowing before their overwhelming size and power, worship them. Even the scent of having been in Saur Land will make them lower their heads.

Prove the existence of Saur Land through the ability you gained as a reward for discovering this place!

Reward: 60 stat points

Dominance over gigantic monsters +30%

(This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame)

‘Kijung… He caught Pyrot-Cocri and earned an S+ achievement by completing a quest given by the Pope.’

But what was this? An S+ achievement just for discovery?

Nothing but stepping foot there first, resulting in an S+ achievement!

‘Balance… balance!’

Considering that the discovery of Peklo City had an S-grade, the discovery level and rarity of Saur Land would exceed those of Peklo City.

It implied that it was a place rarer and more vital than the undead city made by one of the Demon King’s Fragment.

‘It makes sense. It has to be that way.’

A civilization more advanced than humans.


Magic stronger than dragons.

Natural affinity more harmonious than elves.

No such entity exists in the world. Or rather, did not exist.

‘Until the Saurus race was discovered.’

Leeha trembled all over.

60 stat points and 30% dominance over gigantic monsters.

Although he didn’t yet know how to use this dominance over gigantic monsters, he had faith that the additional option tied to an S+ grade wouldn’t be bad.

‘No, wait, this… I’ve seen this before. Crazy! Character window!’

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Occupation: White Reaper / Level: 261 (2.11%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 176

HP: 11,790(8,253)

MP: 5,465

Stats: Strength 894(+809)

Agility 4,451(+1,621)

Intelligence 645(+429)

Stamina 464(+338)

Mentality 421(+176)

Remaining Stat Points: 386

“Huh?”


“What, at what level?”

“What’s the option?”

“N-No. It’s not the achievement, it’s the stats… They are odd.”

Leeha blinked, staring at his character window. When was the last time he assigned any stat points?

Having swept through countless achievements and gained levels from defeating an Adult Lich Dragon, his stat points had accumulated without his notice.

“Stats? What’s your total stat score?”

“Even just mentioning your Agility would be enough.”

Despite Luger’s question and Kidd slyly adding on, Leeha did not respond to any of them.

There was no need to showcase his foolishness.

‘First… let’s replenish mana. The next would be increasing the damage of Black Bass.’

He had previously considered it unnecessary.

He thought he could allocate the stat points later when something essential appeared, or if new item requirements became known.

But that was a waste.

‘No, that’s not it. They were all one-shot, one-kill anyway, so it’s not necessarily a waste… But overbalance-wise, I might be the overbalance. Heh.’

Leeha mockingly self-praised as he distributed his stat points appropriately.

Leeha allocated 79 points to increase his mind to 500, which boosted his MP, and added 300 points to his agility. By making this allocation at once, he instantly reached an agility total that would typically require a level-up of about 60 levels to achieve, bringing his overall agility to 4,751.

‘Now, the damage for the Multi-Warhead Shot when undetected is 80,000 per shot…?’

Using the 〈Melding Breath〉 skill to become completely hidden, and then approaching an enemy to fire the Multi-Warhead Shot at close range?

That would unleash 47 shots, each inflicting 80,000 damage.

‘Whoa…’


Leeha halted his calculations.

They had arrived just in front of the city at that moment.

“Wow…”

“Oh my! What we saw from a distance— it really was as I thought!? Look at this, honey!”

“I am looking, Liza… But getting all excited over gold—”

“What!? What’s wrong with liking precious metals? Gold and diamonds represent eternal purity and unchanging love—”

“Haha, it hasn’t changed one bit, Beth.”

Listening to the lively chatter among the NPCs, the players couldn’t help but smile warmly and feel moved.

The entire dinosaur city was gilded, and the gems embedded everywhere were reflecting colorful lights.

* * *

“So extravagant…”

“Ha, the city walls are made of gold? A shot from a cobalt-blue python would melt them down.”

“The barrier outside wasn’t protecting just the wall’s front, was it? Luger, even if you fired a thousand shots, you might not break through.”

“What, what!? Are you underestimating me?!”

The opulence of the Saurus city was enough to excite even the Three Musketeers.

The dazzling appearance of the city, visible from a distance, was almost blinding.

However, as they drew closer, they started feeling something was strange.

The closer they got, and finally upon reaching the vicinity of the city wall, it became almost certain.

Both the former and the current Three Musketeers had the same observation.

“…Something…”

“Feels too strange.”

Regardless, a city wall is a city wall. Naturally, there was a gate for entry and exit, and gatekeepers to guard it.

Yet, there weren’t many dinosaurs passing through.

Whether it was a city or a royal palace or something else, it wasn’t unusual for there to be few or many dinosaurs passing by. The issue was…

The height of the gatekeepers.

And the height of the dinosaurs passing through.

That was indeed strange.

“This could be mistaken for a human city.”

“Those dinosaurs… Don’t they look like they could just be Lizardia?”

“Aren’t they more like giants? They’re about 2 meters tall? Their arms are a bit long, making their proportions odd…”

“The dinosaurs capturing us— they are taller than this wall! What is this?”

Dinosaurs around 40 meters tall stood before a city wall about 10 meters high.

To them, the wall must have looked like a mere miniature model.

Naturally, the dinosaurs passing through the gate had to resemble the size of humans. Otherwise, passing through would mean demolishing everything.

Even Elizabeth and Brown seemed taken aback, as if they hadn’t expected this. Only Bailephus was in awe.

“They’re conserving resources. If this is possible—”

And as if to confirm his theory, the dinosaurs used magic.

Shwooooo…

They swiftly shrank to a size similar to humans, reducing from about 40 meters tall to merely 2 meters.

With the height of giants and the appearance resembling Lizardia, and slightly elongated arms that mismatched their proportions, the dinosaurs approached the city gates naturally.

“I’ve brought the human who defeated the Anti-King.”

“Excellent, Your Highness. Please proceed, third Prince.”

“Alright.”

The dinosaurs bowed respectfully to a dinosaur wearing a golden helmet. Another golden-helmeted dinosaur followed them, receiving greetings as well.

Still trapped in the bubble-like magic, Leeha and his party listened to the conversation with somewhat astonished faces.

―Third Prince? A prince? Did I hear that right?

―He’s more important than we thought.

―So that’s why he was so obsessed with the term ‘Anti-King’.

Leeha nodded as he listened to Kidd’s words. From start to finish, he didn’t mention the name ‘Toon’ even once.

‘Royal family’s human—no, it’s not a human. It’s a dinosaur from the royal family.’

It was rather fortunate.

If that was the case, he would have shown favor towards Leeha from the first moment they met.

Moreover, it was the golden-helmeted dinosaur who instantly recognized Kyle’s identity.

‘Seeing as how the other dinosaurs weren’t particularly cautious around Kyle… there must be some unique ability only the royal family possesses.’

Leeha’s intuition told him so.

The clue to treating Kyle might be found there.

However, it still wasn’t an unequivocal choice. He kept wondering who it would be for and who would benefit from it.

This concern kept bothering him. Yet, there was no viable solution at the moment.

After all, it wasn’t even certain if they could treat Kyle or not.

‘No use worrying about it in advance.’

Leeha shook his head, tossing aside the cluttered thoughts.

The thoroughfares were meticulously arranged in a grid pattern, and the dinosaurs roamed, flinching and observing Leeha’s party as they passed.

Just as this place was unknown to humans, perhaps most inside this place were also unfamiliar with humans?

Leeha was watching them and their distance from within the bubble.

“Feels like being a zoo monkey.”

“You should enjoy this opportunity.”

“Ha, can you really enjoy this? Alexander! Can you enjoy this?”

Hearing Kidd’s words, Luger looked at Alexander.

Fernand, per Kidd’s suggestion, was indeed enjoying the current situation. Though the NPCs seemed uncomfortable, they were enduring it in their own way.

And Alexander?

“…… I am…… the pinnacle of humanity….”

The pride of ranking first was under a severe attack.

“Pfft.”

“Haha, even he has days like this.”

Leeha and Luger couldn’t hold back their laughter.

How long they had been moving like this, a familiar place to humans like Leeha appeared.

“A castle.”

“A castle made of jewels…?”

It couldn’t compare with those of Fibiel or Minis.

The grandeur of the castle, adorned with gold leaf and jewels, was beyond words.

The Third Prince quietly turned his head to observe the humans inside the bubble.

“It is possible only in our advanced civilization. You humans… build stone walls to ward off enemies. Here, there are no enemies, as the security system is perfect. That’s why this is possible. In that sense, humans are truly pitiful.”

The Third Prince genuinely felt pity for humans.

Finally, the dinosaur with the muted helmet standing by the Third Prince spoke for the first time.

“His Majesty is waiting, Prince. All reports have already been made.”

“Hmm. Well done.”

The Third Prince nodded.

“Let’s go in.”

Still enclosed in the bubble, they entered the inner part of the royal palace of Sauroland.

* * *

The interior of the royal palace was just as splendid as its exterior.

The group marveled quietly at the precious artistic adornments.

What was even more surprising was the absence of personnel despite the rich decorations.

“A hall of this size doesn’t have any guarding dinosaurs?”

“Certainly seems like there are no guards.”

“The expression ‘no enemies’ makes sense. It means they are in that much of a peaceful state.”

Alexander was the one who thought the same as the Three Musketeers at that exact point. Unlike their suspicions, his face showed a slight sentimentality.

“It’s confidence.”

“Sorry?”

“They believe they can protect themselves with their own strength. It’s respectable. Without any enemies, they don’t even need a military to guard the king.”

Alexander added with a hint of bitterness.

“But to have such confidence that they wouldn’t even take our weapons….”

Alexander seemed to have acknowledged the Saurians already.

After passing through the corridors and halls for some time, they finally arrived at a massive gate within the expansive palace.
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Creak…

The door opened in sync with the Third Prince’s steps. And there, before them, was the king.

Sitting on the throne was a dinosaur adorned not with a helmet but a crown on his head. Interestingly, he was wearing armor instead of flamboyant garments.

“Even the king is always on guard”, Alexander murmured with a hint of admiration in his voice.

Leeha also tilted his head as he listened to Alexander.

‘He said there were no enemies… But, to begin with, the term “Anti-King” itself implies the existence of an adversary. And to think the king’s clothing is armor?’

Was it thorough preparation despite the absence of enemies?

That would ultimately mean acknowledging the existence of enemies, wouldn’t it?

As Leeha lost himself in thought, the king spoke.

“There is one who has killed a rogue dragon, Ulrek.”

“Yes, Your Majesty. We have confirmed the vocal cords, skin fragments, and claws of the rogue dragon Toon”, the Third Prince called Ulrek bowed his head before the king.

In front of the king, the Third Prince was not using the term “Anti-King.”

Leeha deduced that the term itself was considered disrespectful to the king.

Then, he broke the barrier that had confined Leeha’s group.

The group suddenly found themselves standing on the ground, but they did not panic.

While everyone quietly assumed their positions behind Ulrek, only Leeha boldly looked at the king.

“I see. So, it’s a human.”

“Yes, my name is Ha Leeha.”

“We owe you great gratitude for removing the disgrace of our species.”

The king of the Saurus Tribe wore a bright expression. His gaze soon shifted beyond Leeha to the rest of the group.


Leeha immediately understood who he was looking at.

“Then… You must not have come just to deliver news. What brings you here? It has been a long time since I saw a gold dragon. Is it because of you?”

“Ah, my apologies for the late introduction. I am Bailephus, a Gold Dragon. Although there are many things I wish to discuss, it is not because of me that we came here”, Bailephus greeted the king once again.

Although he had every reason to be flustered by the direct mention of a gold dragon, he displayed the composure befitting an Ancient level being.

At that moment, Leeha became convinced that the dinosaurs possessed a mysterious insight.

‘The Third Prince didn’t know about the dragon… but he mentioned Kyle. In that case—’

The next target the king would mention. No sooner had Leeha thought of Kyle than the king turned his gaze towards him.

“Then it must be because of someone engulfed in dark energy.”

“Kyle! He is called Kyle. We came here to request you to cure my son of his sickness… That’s why we came all this way.”

As Leeha anticipated, the king used a more definitive term than Ulrek. Elizabeth hugged Kyle tightly.

The king observed the mother and son while making a humming sound.

Leeha also lowered his posture again with a pounding heart. It was then that he awaited the king’s next words.

—Completely defenseless.—

‘Huh? What?’

—Kekeke… Saurus, huh… He’s not a half-wit dimwit like Toon. I’ve never tasted the pure blood of a complete Saurus. Do you know, contractor?—

‘Uh, probably not? This place was never revealed, and Toon was the only Saurus tribe member known outside. But a half-wit? Well, he was a mutant like a Silkie chicken…’

—Imagine what it means for the apex of the Saurus to be completely defenseless. No need to mention it.—

Black Bass chuckled in a low voice.

Leeha’s eyes widened as he pondered Black Bass’s words.

‘This is crazy! No! Don’t think about it!’


—Are you afraid? Just one shot. With one shot at the apex of the Saurus, I can become perfect. It’s not about 50%!—

‘You could reach 100%?’

—Exactly. With just one shot. If I drink the blood of the purest and strongest being untouched by any divine or demonic energy… I will become perfect. I can tell by the scent… Kekeke.—

At such close range, there was nothing between Leeha and the king. There wasn’t even a guard nearby.

Though the king wore armor, his face was exposed.

– So… shoot. Then the charge rate will reach 100%.

Black Bass’s words were simple but chilling.

Above all, the temptation of the outcome he subtly hinted at seemed irresistibly appealing and thus felt all the more terrifying.

‘100% charge…’

Shoot the king in this situation?

If the “White Reaper” hit the exact instant kill point, it might catch them in one shot.

Even if it didn’t kill them in one shot, if they became more significant, one could still aim for the timing using “Ghost in the Shell” and multi-warhead missiles.

One could kill them.

Definitely… one could kill them.

So?

What would happen afterward?

‘Setting aside the thought of this accursed ego-possessed serial killer gun called Black Bass, what would happen after killing the king of those dinosaurs?’

Even if he achieved 100%, he would soon die because of the dinosaurs here.

Bailephus, Elizabeth, Brown, Kyle, and Browless wouldn’t be reborn.

‘Stop talking nonsense!’


Leeha dismissed Black Bass’s words lightly.

―Fine… I am just an observer of the chosen one. Until fresher blood is supplied.―

‘Shut up! No matter how many times you repeat that, it’s useless. Black, you absorbed the White Reaper’s gun and showed no effect! You always demand blood refills, don’t you?’

―Kukukuku…―

‘Don’t try to laugh it off! Anyway, I’ll keep an eye on you.’

Leeha quieted Black Bass with a half-threatening tone.

Just as Leeha’s thoughts tangled more complexly, the king spoke again.

“Human, Ha Leeha.”

“Y-yes!”

Leeha, startled as if his thoughts had been read, quickly responded. The king tilted his head slightly but soon showed a gentle expression.

“I appreciate you dealing with the rogue dragon, Toon.”

“Ah, no. It was a threat to us as well, so we only shot it down.”

“I want to repay you… but we decided not to interfere with the world anymore.”

“Pardon?”

“We can give you a simple gift, but we cannot cure those engulfed by darkness.”

The dinosaur king stated his refusal firmly while smiling.

Before Leeha could fully grasp what he meant, Elizabeth shouted first.

“Why! Why! Does that mean there is the ability to cure but you won’t?”

The atmosphere grew somewhat chilly.

Despair appeared on the faces of the NPCs, who had relied solely on that method.

“I’m sorry, but we cannot do that, Ulrek.”

“Yes.”

“Provide them sufficient rest and guide them outside tomorrow afternoon.”

The king tried to rise from his seat.

The sudden turn of events left the players flustered.

Is this really the end? Is this all the culmination of the long journey thus far?

The gazes of Luger, Kidd, Alexander, and Fernand focused on one spot.

Even NPCs Browless, Elizabeth, and Brown were looking at one person’s back.

There was only one person who could step up in this situation.

“Your Majesty.”

Leeha spoke quietly.

“Do you still have more to say, human Ha Leeha?”

The king sat back on the chair. Leeha nodded and whispered quietly.

‘Bargaining.’

Retreating was not an option.

With that determination, Leeha started a debate with the king of Saur Land.

Leeha composed his breath.

It was clear where he should start.

“When you say you will not interfere with the world… does it mean you do not care about external circumstances?”

“Yes.”

“However, the outside world is very concerned about this place. Especially those called the Demon King’s Fragments. The entity that the runaway dragon Toon served was precisely one of them—”

Even if they did not care about the outside, it would be futile. One day, this place would be invaded.

Mentioning that possibility, Leeha intended to draw upon their strength.

“Le, the Noble Demon Clan Leader with Bluebeard, right?”

The King’s words instantly choked off what Leeha was about to say about the dangers of the Demon King’s Fragments.

The King looked at Leeha intently.

“Do you know when Toon left? Of course, we know. Twenty years ago, when that disgrace to the clan went on a rampage with those so-called Demon King’s Fragments, we stayed still. I believe you understand what that means.”

They knew about the 2nd Human-Demon War between Humans and Demons.

And yet, they only watched. If these beings had intervened, it wouldn’t have been called the 2nd Human-Demon War between Humans and Demons.

It might have been dubbed the ‘Final Human-Demon War’, with enough power to obliterate every Demon King’s Fragment.

Leeha, regaining his composure, managed to speak.

“Do you believe they cannot come here? Do you think hiding here makes you safe?”

“They can’t come, or even if they do… so what? We are not hiding; we are avoiding.”

Confidence.

The very confidence that had impressed Alexander resided in them.

This was a common thought among Leeha and the other users.

What if these beings all mobilized? What if every dinosaur in this city emerged?

The balance would collapse.

Whether it was the Demon King’s Fragments or entities akin to Ancient Dragons, unleashing them in tens of thousands would be unbearable for any force.

“Then why do you remain secluded? With such powerful strength and advanced civilization, with resources in abundance, why—”

“Then let me ask you. Why should we help you?”

“What?”

“We have the strength to protect ourselves. We have no shortage of resources. We have food. So, why should we help you?”

“If we fall, the next target for the Demon King’s Fragments will certainly be—”

“If they come here, we’ll deal with them. Relax and meet your annihilation peacefully.”

For a moment, everyone fell silent.

To the degree that even their breathing halted in sync; Leeha’s party couldn’t react.

Meet annihilation peacefully?

They were truly a group that had declared isolation from the world, harder to persuade than Leeha had imagined.

“……Krr—”

“Shh.”

Luger, seething, stood up to say something, but Leeha reached back to restrain him.

He kept his gaze fixed squarely on the Dinosaur King.

Ordinary persuasion wouldn’t work. Neither would saying that the Demon King’s Fragments were coming so they should unite.

Of course, emotional appeals and requests for help were out of the question.

So what was the next strategy?

‘Okay… fine. As Lark mentioned, high-level NPCs are generally difficult to persuade. I know. I’ve had my share of long arguments.’

Even with solid logic, it often took hours to turn their hearts.

But there was a way that didn’t rely on logic.

Leeha quietly turned around. Step, step, step… and walked somewhere.

“Leeha-kun?”

“Senior, may I have a moment, please?”

Leeha politely asked Elizabeth. She bit her lip briefly but nodded.

“I’ll leave it to you.”

“Thank you.”

With Elizabeth’s permission, there was no need to hesitate. Leeha extended his apologies to the person before him where he stopped.

“I’m sorry for the introduction on our first meeting, but I have no choice. Please forgive me.”

With a flourish—!

He pulled back a hood, revealing Kyle’s face.

Though everyone turned to look at his face, Leeha’s voice roared louder.

“This person is the ‘Arcane Sniper’.”

Most users and NPCs, including the King, tilted their heads in confusion. It was a declaration that naturally provoked the question, ‘So what?’

Kyle looked up at the King.

Leeha also looked at Kyle’s face.

Elizabeth had concealed it so diligently, and she had mentioned it was painful, yet his face appeared normal.

So white and delicate, it seemed like he might even be a woman rather than a boy.

Of course, that detail was unimportant to Leeha at the moment.

“And he… this is a Arcane Sniper who remembers the King’s face.”

Elizabeth, Brown, Kidd, and Luger all gasped in realization.
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“Arcane Sniper…”

For the first time, the king’s expression changed.

Leeha found this reaction rather puzzling.

‘When he referred to Kyle as someone buried in demonic energy, I thought he would already know. Are the two things different?’

Did it mean that he knew the situation Kyle was in but didn’t realize it was the work of a Arcane Sniper?

Perhaps Kyle was different from a typical Arcane Sniper. Either way, this detail wasn’t crucial for Leeha at that moment.

“Do you know about it?”

“Of course. It’s not something I’m unfamiliar with.”

“Then I trust you are well aware of the power of the ‘Arcane Bullet’.”

“I also know its power. So?”

Hearing the king’s words, Leeha felt his body tensing up.

The king knew about the Arcane Sniper and the power of the Arcane Bullet. He might even know more about it than Leeha himself.

Yet, the king remained so composed?

Listening to the king’s query, Leeha spoke once again, clearly and slowly.

“Then you must understand. I informed you that the Arcane Sniper has seen Your Majesty’s face.”

In truth, Leeha didn’t know how exactly the Arcane Bullet activated.

What conditions did a Arcane Sniper need, apart from Kaztor being present?

Leeha knew nothing concrete. Hence, he added the premise that the shooter “must know the face”.

Anyone could be killed. In this premise, the crucial element was knowing the identity of that “anyone.”

And at this crucial moment, there was no need to say, “I don’t know well, but it might be like this.”


It was a timing that called for forceful assertion.

Leeha recognized this juncture well.

“… Are you, a mere human, threatening our king?”

The first one to grasp the situation, apart from Leeha’s group, was the third prince, Ulrek. The hostility in his voice towards Leeha was deep and resonated differently from the growl of a tiger or a lion.

“Do you call a straightforward warning a threat? This is not a threat. I am merely pointing out a highly probable event based on sufficient evidence. Moreover… from your reaction, it seems even the Saurus cannot avoid the Arcane Bullet. Hence, you should pay more attention to my words.”

“Ugh, grrr—”

Ulrek was at a loss for words.

Even his extreme reaction showed that Leeha had gained something.

Strengthening his claim and gathering information to dismantle the enemy’s argument far outweighed any hostility from Ulrek.

“But doesn’t he possess a different power apart from the Arcane Sniper?”

“Yes, precisely. That’s the problem. This person is submerged in demonic energy, meaning there’s someone outside controlling him using powers planted in him. That Dark Elf… desires to enter this place. As you said, this place with advanced civilization and abundant resources.”

“So, they’ll use the Arcane Bullet to kill me or threaten me with death to enter this place, is that what you’re saying?”

“I’m saying that’s a possibility.”

Kaztor’s desire to enter this place was to prevent Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle from doing the same. Leeha didn’t know whether Kaztor himself had any interest in Saur Land.

But what’s the point in mentioning that?

No matter the reason, the fact that he “wanted to enter” was undeniable.

“Furthermore, the Dark Elf interested in this place, who can control the Arcane Sniper, is also acquainted with the Demon King’s Fragments. If you avoided them because of disgust rather than fear, from now on, you won’t be able to avoid them. When they join forces and come here, will you be able to handle it?”

“Heh…”

The king, who was about to rise from the throne, appeared to be deep in thought.

Leeha allowed the king some time. He collected his thoughts on what benefits could be gained from this place.


If Kyle could be treated, how would that work out?

If they knew about the Arcane Sniper, how much more did they know compared to the Three Musketeers?

Additionally, could he persuade them to exert their overwhelming power externally?

For that very reason, Leeha spoke forcefully.

“I asked if you would be able to handle it, Your Majesty.”

“If I…”

The king opened his mouth quietly. Leeha locked eyes with him.

“If I kill all of you here, what would happen then? Wouldn’t that prevent the Arcane Sniper from leaking outside?”

Everyone except Leeha flinched at that.

Even Alexander whispered to Bailephus, advising him to prepare for a sudden turn of events.

However, Leeha did not move.

There was one piece of information that none of them, including Luger and Kidd, possessed.

“If it could be eliminated that easily, the legacy of Arcane Sniper wouldn’t still be ongoing. Even if you killed all of us, Arcane Sniper would continue to exist.”

Leeha’s theory would have been true if Zamiel’s words were correct.

In the conversation between Francis and Zamiel, Francis asserted that Arcane Sniper’s gun had to be in some conspicuous place.

Could it be part of their contract? When did Leeha start pondering about this?

‘What if Arcane Sniper died not because all the bullets had been used but due to an unexpected accident? What would happen then?’

What would become of Zamiel and the gun?

It was one of the hypotheses Leeha had started from that question.

The gun of Arcane Sniper was not an item that could be sealed or hidden somewhere.


Zamiel would somehow find a way to escape.

“How can you be so sure? Even if it does happen, what of it? He might choose not to kill us.”

“… You didn’t understand my words. I told you that a Dark Elf, who knows well about Arcane Sniper and how to wield his power, wants to come here. As long as you cannot eradicate him! And as long as you do not completely remove the essence of Arcane Sniper… Saur Land will remain in danger!”

Leeha shouted, feeling frustrated.

How could they utter such nonsense while knowing about Arcane Sniper!

But as soon as the King heard Leeha’s words, his expression changed.

“So, human Ha Leeha, while there are individuals here favorable to you, with Arcane Sniper in your hands… you want us to cure him?”

The smile on the dinosaur’s face was faint.

Only then did Leeha understand their intent.

Initially, he truly intended to send Leeha’s group away. However, after comprehending the real threat Leeha talked about, his mind must have changed.

What methods would they have to handle the incoming danger, having declared their separation from the world?

They instead tried to draw an answer from Leeha.

“Yes. If you do so, I will kill the Dark Elf for you.”

It was this very statement, securing their safety.

Swoosh…!

A holographic window unfurled before Leeha’s eyes.

『Request of Saur Land』

Description: “Indeed, you are the human who eliminated the escaped dragon. You’re smart for a mere human, so you must have found the points to question from what I have said. If the Arcane Sniper could be eliminated through treatment, we would have done it already. However, that’s impossible. Using all our technical prowess, the best we could do is return the state of those buried in demonic energy to normal… but do you still want treatment? Of course, don’t forget there’s a price.”

The King of Saur Land, Trudon, wishes to make a request. Let’s execute the most certain method to safeguard Saur Land’s security.

Content: Kill the Dark Elf Kaztor, who can manipulate Arcane Sniper.

Pre-reward: Treatment of Kyle’s condition using Saur Land’s technology.

Reward: ?

Will you accept it?

Leeha quickly scanned the quest window.

The other users watched Leeha, who seemed to be staring into space momentarily.

Was it because they weren’t the ones directly negotiating with King Trudon that the quest window didn’t appear?

Luger and Kidd grumbled in discontent. However, knowing they lacked the necessary information to engage in a debate with Trudon, they had no choice but to accept it.

Middle Earth did not grant equal opportunities to everyone.

It reached out only to the prepared.

‘There’s a hidden reward besides the upfront one. Moreover, Kaztor…’

Wasn’t he someone who had to be killed anyway?

Leeha didn’t need much time to think. Even just improving Kyle’s condition would make Elizabeth and Brown regard Leeha as their lifesaver.

‘And if I could learn one or two more skills there… hehe!’

The face that had fiercely debated with Trudon moments ago had vanished, replaced by a sly smile. Seeing this, Kidd let out a sigh.

Leeha, sensing the atmosphere, quietly pressed the accept button.

Trudon nodded in accordance.

“Good. I accept that proposal. Ulrek?”

“Yes, Your Majesty.”

“Conduct a thorough examination of the one encroached by demonic energy, and ensure the others have ample rest.”

“Understood.”

Was it because the King had shown favor again?

The Third Prince Ulrek approached Leeha with a friendly look, as if he had never shown hostility.

“Human Ha Leeha and your companions, follow me.”

And then took the lead.

Outside the door, a dinosaur wearing a bronze helmet was waiting for Ulrek.

“Is it trying to be friendly?”

“Well, one bite from those teeth and there won’t be much flesh left…”

“The smile of a dinosaur really takes some getting used to.”

Even though it reduced its size, the ground trembled with every step it took—thud, thud. Following its footsteps, the group exited the palace. The place they arrived at, watching the gazes of other dinosaurs, was as grand as the palace itself.

NPCs were staring at the building with wide-open eyes.

Players had similar reactions, but their amazement was for slightly different reasons.

“This is…?”

“Isn’t this a hospital? It’s almost the size of a general hospital!”

“I didn’t expect to see the cross symbol here!”

It was a modern building with a modern structure. The interior was even more astonishing. With marble columns and floors, the lobby was furnished with waiting chairs, and there were admin offices just like one would see ‘outside the game.’

The only unnatural thing was that the ones waiting were not humans but dinosaurs.

“Those who are possessed by demon energy will be examined here. The rest of the humans—”

“Me, me too! Please let me stay here with my child. I am his mother.”

Elizabeth hurriedly shouted at Ulrek’s words.

Ulrek nodded.

“Fine. You may need a guardian. Anyone else—”

“I am his father. I will stay too.”

“In that case, I can’t leave either. I’ll stay as well.”

Brown and Browless also interrupted Ulrek and sat down on chairs.

Ulrek’s expression twitched, but before he could say anything, Elizabeth spoke again.

“Leeha… Could you stay as well?”

“Me? Uh… Should I?”

Leeha glanced at Ulrek. Ulrek sighed.

Taking it as silent approval, Leeha nodded.

“Alright, I will.”

Moreover, staying here would be a chance to observe their ‘advanced civilization’, and most importantly, the Three Musketeers were here.

When Leeha gave a quick look, Ulrek shook his head as if he couldn’t help it and spoke.

“Fine. Spino, take the others away except for the five of them.”

“Yes, Your Highness.”

Ulrek’s assistant, Spino, led Alexander, Bailephus, Fernand, Kidd, and Luger out of the hospital.

In fact, there wasn’t much Leeha and the others could do at the hospital.

Ulrek’s presence drastically reduced the waiting time, giving them priority for all examinations.

Leeha watched in astonishment as Kyle filled out a simple questionnaire, had blood drawn, and even underwent something similar to X-rays and CT scans.

‘Is this concept even feasible?’

Magic wasn’t something that could be explained by science, but this felt like over-technology, closely resembling modern medicine.

However, Leeha ended that thought with a laugh after hearing a whispered conversation between Kidd and Luger.

“It’s a hotel.”

“Damn, it’s better than a five-star hotel in Berlin! What is this place?”

Saur Land, a place where long-armed dinosaurs lived, was literally another world. Leeha thought that this might be an entertaining bonus stage, unrelated to Middle Earth’s main storyline. The examination proceeded swiftly.

During that time, Leeha had many conversations with Ulrek and the old generation of the Three Musketeers.

He learned some surprising facts there.

“So, you can enter Laputa?”

“No, I meant we can locate its vicinity. It is a land where divine power converges, and only a chosen few among us can enter.”

“So has anyone—any dinosaur been there?”

“Indeed.”

“Who is—”

Leeha eagerly asked, and Ulrek revealed his dinosaur teeth in a grin.

Leeha now understood that it was a smile.
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“Am I not saying it now?”

“Pardon?”

Leeha was flustered and couldn’t grasp the meaning behind his words. Ulrek chuckled and elaborated.

“I, Ulrek, third prince of Saur Land and head of the Department of Creation Science, am one of the dinosaurs who has been there.”

Leeha was so shocked he almost fell off his chair.

“Is it really true?”

“It is, I’m telling you. Ulrek was the most recent one to visit, and a few others had gone before him.”

Leeha spoke excitedly.

The group had gathered in a hotel room that was suite-level, listening to Leeha’s story.

“Department of Creation Science… What an absurd name. Does their advanced civilization mean actual science? I was uneasy from the moment I saw the elevator.”

“Well, it’s not entirely like that. Luger, your point makes sense. But the important thing isn’t just science; it’s ‘creation’ science. Doesn’t that ring any bells?”

“Are you talking about creationism?”

“At least in the Middle Earth worldview, it’s a fitting term.”

Kidd immediately understood what Leeha was saying.

Fernand, who was listening nearby, asked Leeha a question.

“Does that mean it’s science developed based on the power of gods?”

“Probably. There are no living beings in Laputa, but there are ruins. It seems like the Saurus have been studying advanced civilization there since ancient times, and used that research to build their current civilization.”

“Ha, those dinosaur heads. They act all high and mighty, but in the end, it’s all stolen, isn’t it?”

“Not exactly. Just breaching the barrier of Laputa is proof they have a strong foundation.”

Luger wanted to downplay the Saurus, but no one agreed with him.


The Three Musketeers, who had been grumbling, now shut their mouths.

Those who were most curious about Laputa were finally about to speak.

“But a land without living beings… that’s utterly absurd. How could that land, that island, even function? Using magic across the entire island that’s undetectable by mana scans…”

“The barrier is also hard to comprehend. Umm, they said only the ‘worthy’ can enter. So, we thought there might be someone checking for eligibility.”

Bailephus and Fernand crossed their arms and shook their heads simultaneously.

Their points were fundamental and unavoidable questions for anyone who had seen Laputa.

Laputa had no living beings inside it.

“What Ulrek said is probably true. He has no reason to lie to me now.”

“How can you be so certain?”

“Affinity. Alexander-ssi, you know that if the affinity level is high enough, NPCs might not answer but they won’t lie, right?”

“Hmm…”

Ulrek had shared a wealth of information with Leeha.

Leeha had listened to all of it and had deeply pondered the extent of that sharing.

However, it wasn’t just Leeha who had heard this information; Elizabeth, Brown, and Browless were also present.

While it might have been good to keep the information secret if he were alone, Leeha thought it was better to disclose and contemplate it with more people, as the information would soon come to light anyway.

“So, does that mean the island is meaningless?”

“No, I don’t think so. There were traces of life, he said.”

“Traces of life? What did he say was there?”

“Those who received the power of God. That’s what Ulrek said.”

“Received? Angels?”


Luger instinctively sensed the word and asked. His gaze was fixed on Bailephus.

Bailephus, holding the most knowledge among the NPCs present, shook his head despite his status as an Ancient Gold Dragon.

“I don’t know if they are angels, but Ulrek described that place as ‘the land where the power of God has melted.’ It’s supposedly the only place with a device that can reach God.”

Listening to Leeha’s words, everyone sank into thought.

The land where the power of God had melted. The place where those who received the power of God lived. The place with traces of the civilization of those who built it.

What could be in Laputa?

What does it mean to reach God?

Alexander and Fernand began to align their thoughts with the Pope of Ezwen.

The first to react was Kidd.

He lifted the brim of his hat and looked at Leeha.

Leeha did not avoid his gaze. A faint smile lingered on Leeha’s lips.

“Could it be… the power of a God-”

Kidd could not finish his sentence and turned his gaze away from Leeha. His focus shifted towards Luger.

Luger did not miss the small voice Kidd uttered. Naturally, his eyes widened as well.

“The power of a God, that- that!?”

“Possibly!”

Luger and Leeha spoke in turn.

Although Alexander, Fernand, and Bailephus still did not understand, at least the Three Musketeers could grasp something.

“The one that can stop the Arcane Bullet, is it that?”

“Not certain. But at this point, it’s the most likely.”


“Hah, haha… good, Ha Leeha. Very good. You’ve brought me excellent information, mutt.”

Luger looked at Leeha with a meaningful smile.

Of course, there was a reason Leeha could share such things without hesitation.

“You think you can enter Laputa without me?”

“Uh, what?”

“Make sure you know who is the only one capable of exerting influence in Saur Land… Luger.”

The only method to obtain information from Ulrek was through Leeha. What if Leeha had already heard the way to enter Laputa? And if he was hiding it?

“Y-you bastard!”

Luger, who lunged at Leeha with furrowed brows, halted when their eyes met.

“Aren’t you feeling thirsty?”

“Puhaha! Ahem, let’s see… bring me a glass of cold water with two floating ice cubes.”

This meant Leeha had control over the situation.

Kidd shook his head as he watched Luger change his attitude in an instant.

“At least, Ha Leeha, without you, nothing here would have been possible.”

“Your praise is too weak, weak.”

Leeha waved his hand at Kidd.

Stronger! Give stronger stimulation!

However, Kidd did not offer more praise. Instead, he merely smiled lightly.

“Hmpf. I see. If it’s weak, there’s nothing I can do.”

His response was sincere.

Kidd did not aim to impress Leeha. Rather, recalling Leeha’s past deeds, he felt genuine admiration.

If Leeha had not killed Toon?

If he had used the loot from his vocal cords and skin differently?

If he hadn’t gained a hint about vocal cords from Kaztor?

If he hadn’t known about Francis and Zamiel?

‘No, even if he did, not everyone could have acted that way.’

His ability to draw results from such information. Even with the same materials, very few users would have been able to overturn the decision of Saur Land’s king and successfully treat Kyle.

Leeha, unaware of Kidd’s thoughts, simply booed at him.

“Boo, Kidd you’re disqualified!”

“Khaha! That’s right! You’re disqualified! Now, cold water with floating ice!”

Watching Luger hand Leeha a cup, Kidd laughed.

“Haha, anyway… you all never change.”

The strange feeling Kidd had numerous times on his way here, others started to feel it too.

Not only users like Alexander and Fernand but even NPCs admired Leeha’s insight.

“Indeed. Without Leeha here… Kyle wouldn’t have entered here.”

“Right, right! Just endure for three more days and Kyle can get better! How could I possibly repay this favor—”

Elizabeth could not hide her flowing tears.

Kyle, who was not present at this location, was currently admitted to a hospital in Saur Land.

After a detailed examination, the time required for his treatment was determined to be three days.

Ulrek had given precise treatment instructions, and only after confirming that Elizabeth and Brown had begun the treatment process did they leave the hospital.

“Oh please, it’s an honor to be of help to you seniors. I still have so much to learn from you.”

Leeha smiled sheepishly.

Browless also watched Leeha and his comrades with a satisfied expression.

The next three days.

The belief that they could spend warm and peaceful days without any special worries gently spread within the room.

* * *

“Manticore is to be handled by Bobae and Hyein hyung! Start dealing with the Chimera line first! Healers, focus your healing on the paladins holding the line and me!”

Kijung, along with Byulcho and the paladins, was overseeing the defense wall at the border between the west and east of the New Continent.

Fortunately, the number of Manticores was not large.

When Hyein immobilized them by manipulating gravity or temporarily locking space, Bobae’s heavy arrows would pierce through their wing membranes, making it sufficient to keep them in check.

The Chimeras, however, were the main problem.

‘There are too many. We might be overrun.’

The sheer scale of their numbers made sweat drip down Kijung’s back!

To make matters worse, this wasn’t all the enemy’s Chimeras.

Chimeras kept pouring towards the Corrupted World Tree Forest, enough to fill the distant eastern plains.

“Phew, Kay! Do you feel it?”

“Of course, Tale hyung. It’s as if…”

Kijung stopped speaking and swallowed.

It was hard to say it aloud. Was there no other monster or life form in the eastern part of the New Continent?

‘All of them… turned into Chimeras? But according to Leeha hyung, there are still many monsters left.’

Yet, how could there be so many Chimeras?

“〈Fire: Advancing Sword〉! We do our duty!”

Whoosh―!

Tale’s sword burst into flames.

Swinging his now more fiercely burning sword, Tale sliced through the Chimeras.

Watching him, Kijung shouted.

“Absolutely! We have one final move left! Haap!”

Pushing back a Chimera’s tentacles with his shield, he lightly swung his sword. In response to his shout, another voice echoed.

“That ‘final move’! It’s me, isn’t it!?”

From the rear, her voice reached Kijung clearly. Unable to hide his delight, he turned to see her.

“Rapha—no, saintess!”

Saintess Raphaela was already casting wide-area healing spells across various fronts as she made her entrance.

She was laying down ‘healing zones’, typically reserved for raids, and another familiar user was alongside her.

―The count of Chimera entities has been completed. About 10 Manticores are on standby at the rear, but they are not moving… If they were planning a full-scale war, they would’ve approached much earlier. It seems like they’re trying to hide something with their actions. From the brief, fleeting moment on my map, it seemed like there was a huge entity they were attempting to conceal—

―Ghibrid! No, I apologize, Rubini! You mean Ghibrid, right!?

Kijung was so delighted that his words got jumbled.

‘I knew it! There was something unusual today! Chimeras have never shown such movements before!’

Listening to Rubini’s words, Kijung felt assured. There was no room for doubt.

Given that Rubini’s map-reading capabilities had significantly improved after the Pyrot-Cocri incident, his insights provided Kijung with enough empirical evidence to be confident.

Unlike the past when they had to be in close proximity to detect them, Rubini could now identify the Demon King’s fragments from a considerable distance.

Thus, the observations made by Byulcho’s guild master, who had guarded the border between the west and east of the New Continent, indicated one clear fact through Rubini’s guidance.

“The Saintess is here!”

“Don’t worry about your health! She will save anything as long as you’re not dead!”

Tankers on the frontlines shouted with morale high.

Raphaela, the person in question, smirked but her eyes were smiling.

“I’m done with the ‘Saintess’ image! I’m going to change to a cooler one! 〈All-Seeing Eye of Ahlo〉!”

It wasn’t just Rubini who had grown after the Pyrot-Cocri doppelgänger extermination. A gigantic eye began forming above Raphaela’s head.
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“Wow!?”

“If the person who uses the skill is that surprised, it could make people feel uneasy.”

“But it’s amazing, nuna!”

Raphaela looked at the massive eye floating above her head.

It wasn’t precisely formed enough to be called an eyeball. Therefore, even though an eyeball was floating in the air, it didn’t create a sense of disgust.

Rather, its indistinct and blurred boundaries, which naturally blended into the sky, offered a sense of warmth.

“That, that―”

“A buff!? A massive area-of-effect buff!”

“It’s a heal! It includes dot healing too?”

The users were bewildered.

Raphaela had cast the skill at a point in the rear of the battlefront.

Yet, the buffs and heals had reached even the users on the frontline, affecting the entire extended battlefront.

That wasn’t the only surprising aspect.

“Keee―ruuuu―!”

“Grrrr―!”

White sparks were flickering on the surfaces of the chimeras confronting the frontline users.

“Could it be?”

“Does it attack too?”

The light emitted from the eye bestowed positive effects on allies and negative effects on enemies.

And it spanned across the entire battlefront.


“Holy… Raphaela?”

Kijung quietly observed her.

In the rear of the battle line, she was screaming excitedly.

‘Will her image as a Saintess change? It would be better to remain a Saintess than to gain a nickname like ‘God’s Eyeball’.’

Kijung glanced around.

Thanks to Raphaela’s massive area effects, their momentum had significantly diminished.

As the mindless chimeras hesitated, the manticores in the sky began to rampage even more.

―Hyein hyung, Bobae-ssi. How’s the situation?

―The manticores’ command is in turmoil. They’ll have to come closer to the ground, making them easier to target. If one burst from 〈Triple Gravity〉 lands accurately, Bobae’s arrow won’t miss. There are many long-range users also participating.

―Anyway, nothing could compare to my arrow! By the way, who is that Raphaela woman? Kijung, what’s going on with her?

Hyein’s cold analysis and Bobae’s sharp voice came through simultaneously.

Kijung waved his hands frantically.

Although he was quite far from Bobae, he knew that ‘Hawk’s Eye’ wouldn’t miss his actions.

―N, nothing’s going on! Anyway― since the chimeras have been pushed back a bit now…… I’m going to step away for a while.

―Step away? Kay, if you leave―

―Oh! Not logging out…… but stepping away from the battle line.

Kijung conveyed the same message to Tale.

Seeing Hyein’s surprised expression, Tale also looked at Kijung with wide eyes.

They both knew he wouldn’t leave the battle line in such an urgent time if it wasn’t necessary.

“Kay? It might be fine for now, but if you retreat, the morale of the tankers will drop drastically.”


“Ah… I’m not retreating, hyung.”

“Hmm? Then?”

Kijung shifted his gaze from Tale towards the front.

Beyond the central part of the new continent, towards the eastern forest. Kijung stared fiercely in that direction.

“Ghibrid moved back. Suddenly.”

Kijung couldn’t sit back and watch the unusual attack pattern and the precise movement marked on Rubini’s map.

Tale quickly grasped his intention.

“What, what are you thinking―”

“Rubini-nim said she’d check with the map. As you said, there won’t be a significant change in the battle line immediately. So… Please understand. Okay?”

“You know the time limit of 〈Dinosaurization〉 better than anyone. Once it ends, Ghibrid―”

“Haha, don’t worry. I’ll be back! 〈Protection Film〉.”

When breaking through enemy lines, defense was crucial.

However, it wasn’t about taking the enemy’s attacks directly but diverting them.

The tentacles of the chimera, which could barely be called arms or legs, slid and danced off Kijung’s shield.

“Wait! Kay!”

Kijung did not look back. Amid the chaotic frontline, a pitch-black mass swiftly passed by.

“Oh my?”

“Why, unni? Were you surprised because my skill is so~ powerful?”

“No, no, Raphaela. It’s not that…”

Rubini observed the map intently. She seemed to have discovered something, but nothing appeared on her map.


* * *

―So, I’m on my way now.

―A freaking lunatic! What do you think you’re doing alone again? This is totally different from the Pyrot-Cocri situation!

“Ah, he’s so loud.”

Kijung shook his head. Despite lowering the whisper volume to the minimum, Leeha’s voice throbbed through his skull.

―For now, Rubini-nim is watching over us with the map. As long as nothing crazy happens, we won’t get caught. Plus, Raphaela’s skill is so amazing that all the attention is directed there. Do you think I’m acting without any plan?

―You have no idea, do you! Kijung, you’re an idiot without a thought. Yep, a complete blockhead. We made such a fuss just to catch one clone of Pyrot-Cocri, and now you’re going alone against Ghibrid? How on earth do you think that’s a sane idea?

―You speak way too rashly, hyung. Anyway! I’ll just sneak a look at why Ghibrid is acting strange all of a sudden and get back to you.

―I appreciate it, but… sigh, alright. Just be careful! Two days ago, Bluebeard had a clash with Bahamut. The Demon King’s Fragment side is on high alert too. I can guess why Ghibrid is moving, but still…

In the current situation, there was only one reason for the Demon King’s army’s unusual movement. Kijung had been tipped off by Leeha.

―Yeah, that’s exactly why I’m going, hyung. If Tiamat really awakens… even I won’t have the confidence to lead.

The 1:1 duel between Bahamut and Bluebeard was already circulating among the top-grade users. Perhaps the unprecedented clash between these two beings piqued their interest even more.

“The result is a draw. Considering that Pyrot-Cocri was prevented from reviving, it could be seen as a victory for Bahamut. Yet, the important thing is that the other side holds a card too.”

Based on the achievement of their original goal, it was fair to call it a victory for Bahamut and the metal dragon. However, the decisive 1:1 duel ended in a draw, signifying the power balance with the Demon King’s army was found lacking.

“Ghibrid didn’t even move. If Ghibrid joins, the balance will break… and if another dragon like Tiamat, comparable to Bahamut, awakens—”

The balance would completely collapse. Kijung wanted to prevent that. Just as they had stopped Pyrot-Cocri’s full revival, he wished to prevent Tiamat’s summoning too.

―At 11 o’clock direction, 180 meters away, a Manticore is creating a Chimera. Try to avoid that area.

―Got it! I’ll go around!

―Don’t detour too much. They’re also creating Chimeras 300 meters away in the 2 o’clock direction.

―Yes, yes!

Kijung cautiously navigated while exchanging whispers with Rubini. From the frontline, it seemed like an endless surge of Chimeras, but as he maneuvered through, he found that there were more gaps than he initially perceived. Without Rubini, it would have been impossible to notice these faint openings, but for Kijung, they posed no issue.

“Kieeek—!”

He cautiously circled around and observed the 11 o’clock direction mentioned by Rubini. The Manticore appeared to be implanting its tail into an animal that wouldn’t even be recognized as a monster. The creature, resembling a rabbit, melted and dissolved.

“That small creature, not even the size of my head…”

Soon, it let out a bizarre scream and began merging with nearby rocks and trees. Thick tree trunks protruded from the rock surfaces. The branches and trunks quickly became veined, transforming as if they were the hind legs of the rabbit that had just been alive.

“Krarak, Kraralalak—”

The Chimera, with limbs resembling the rabbit’s hind legs, started running towards the frontline with a grotesque leap. This horrifying creature, which made one’s skin crawl just from looking at it, was exactly what Ghibrid and his Manticores created.

“At least the ones Ghibrid makes have proper forms. The ones made by Manticores are just… it’s a joke to even call them living creatures.”

Despite the grotesqueness, Kijung was troubled. How much impact would these rapidly-created Chimeras from the Manticores have on the frontline? It seemed all they needed to create a Chimera of such influence was a single rock, a tree, and one animal.

“Is it life alchemy? They’re able to create terrifying Chimeras with so few materials…”

This was one reason the Chimera army could proliferate nearly infinitely. Engaging them with sheer numbers was impossible.

“Hoo… let’s go.”

Kijung moved cautiously yet swiftly.

As he continued, 150 meters, 400 meters, 500 meters passed, and soon the core of the New Continent was barely visible.

―Master Kay!

―Yes?!

―From now on… move slowly.

Finally, Rubini’s voice began to change.

Without any extra words from her, Kijung reacted immediately. There was only one reason Rubini would suddenly become tense.

―Ghibrid is… spotted on the map. Approximately 800 meters from you, very close.

Around that time, many users had gathered near Rubini in the core of the New Continent.

The sheer size of the holographic map she used caught everyone’s attention.

“Is that… really it?”

“Crazy… How much did you zoom in, dr. Doom?”

“It’s not about the zoom!”

“Then, are you saying that the red dot is practically filling the map?”

More than half of the holographic map was filled with red dots.

What Rubini had found was the beginning of Ghibrid’s power reading; the true center of the dot, Ghibrid’s exact location, wasn’t yet marked on the map.

“Does that mean that’s where Master Kay is?”

“Why is he going there as if it’s a suicide mission?”

From Kijung’s position, what he saw was merely Ghibrid’s “spilling power”.

How much time had passed since he awakened?

Ghibrid, who had regained considerable power, was no longer the feeble Demon King’s Fragment he once was.

“Unni, sister! Can’t you zoom in more? How about moving the map? Focus it here!”

“I can’t do that, Raphaela.”

Rubini couldn’t hide her anxiety while looking at the map. It was something she had already told Kijung.

“What? Why not?”

“The map… is blocking the flow of mana itself. I can’t read any further.”

The map wasn’t updating.

Though she had captured Ghibrid’s “spilling power”, the moment he crossed an unreadable line, even Kijung’s position would no longer be displayed on her map.

All the users, including Rubini, focused on Kijung’s dot.

The dot, moving slowly, finally approached the boundary Rubini couldn’t read beyond.

“He’s going in, he’s going in!”

“Record it!”

“Crazy, if Master Kay dies, those rampaging Chimeras will go wilder!”

As users fussed over it, Kijung’s dot vanished as though it melted away.

Raphaela gnawed at her nails, and Rubini continued to stare at the now unreadable map.

Because of the anxiety that filled her mind.

‘I’m anxious… No, this is strange.’

Why was the flow of mana being blocked? If they could block the flow of mana, why didn’t they do it from the start?

Suddenly, Rubini raised her head.

* * *

―This is strange! If Ghibrid had such an ability, he would have blocked it from the beginning! Chaotically cut off the mana flow on the front lines to hide his position… Agh?!

Her words were cut off mid-whisper.

Kijung’s whisper arrived first.

―That’s right. Because Bluebeard is with them.

Kijung raised his sword. Bluebeard was perched on a rock.

Was it because the sun was still shining? Pyro and Igor weren’t visible. However, in front of Bluebeard stood another man.

“… Holy Knight.”

No longer hiding himself with bandages, the fully revealed Demon King’s Fragment.

“… Ghibrid.”

Kijung locked eyes with Bluebeard and Ghibrid.

Scattered before them were dragon heads of various colors. There were precisely five.

Among them were the heads of a Bronze Dragon, a Silver Dragon, a Steel Dragon, and a Copper Dragon of the Metal clan. Slightly separated from them was a bright red head.

The head of the Ancient red dragon, Kuzgunak’sh.
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Kijung immediately recognized it even without Rubini’s warning.

In this area that had been a forest, the spot Rubini had warned about was a desolate clearing, as if completely deforested.

It felt oddly out of place, as if the trees around had been deliberately removed.

As soon as Kijung noticed this, they had also precisely identified Kijung.

“Ho―! Looks like there’s no need to send Igor and Pyro to fetch prey? The Holy Knight walked right in…”

Bluebeard had a faint smile on his face.

Kijung stopped, unable to move hastily. Considering Bluebeard’s movements from before, Kijung thought it was nearly impossible to escape from him.

In the end, the only option was to break through…

Bluebeard was sitting on a rock, holding his abdomen, with a magic circle drawn in front of him and dragon heads placed on it.

Ghibrid was standing beside the dragon heads.

“Prey… So, you were trying to awaken Tiamat after all?”

Despite Kijung’s composure, they didn’t show any signs of being disturbed.

Just a slightly impressed expression after a brief moment of surprise. Bluebeard didn’t hide or mask anything.

“Tsk, tsk! Has there been a human who figured it out already? Ah, Ha Leeha?”

Smoothly acknowledging it, he uttered Leeha’s name.

At this point, the only person who knew about ‘Tiamat’ and was aware that Bluebeard was trying to summon it was Leeha.

Bluebeard seemed to mutter as if he knew this fact.

“Yes, yes. They said you, Holy Knight, were connected to Ha Leeha, didn’t they? I remember what Chiyou said. Hey, Ghibrid. Can we not use the Holy Knight as Tiamat’s first prey? There’s no need to wait until evening.”

Even after taking out the dragon heads and completing the magic circle, it looked like they had paused any further progress.

Kijung immediately realized that this was a move by Middle Earth’s system.


The main story progression rule that “as long as even one user is around, the story progresses” was in play.

In the game, this rule was designed to avoid errors that occurred when NPCs alone drove the key parts of the story.

Without Pyro and Igor, who were restricted during the day, if Kijung hadn’t appeared, they would have remained in their current state until nightfall.

But now? With a user, Master Kay, present, the scenario had altered.

Ghibrid slowly looked back at Kijung.

A well-built physique and a handsome face with a chiseled jaw came into Kijung’s view. His face, which should have seemed impressive, lost its aura due to just one thing—his eyes.

No glimmer could be found in his eyes.

If Prea was a white-eyed spirit with no pupils, then the current Ghibrid was a human with black sclera and no whites.

Even stranger was that all his equipment looked just like that of a regular user.

Kijung felt a chilling sensation, as if seeing something familiar yet nonexistent in the real world.

“That won’t be possible, Le. This body is too precious to be used as fodder for the Chromatic Queen. I will wear the Holy Knight’s skin.”

His words, which had sounded like broken radio transmissions before, were now perfectly articulated.

Kijung felt chills upon hearing his clear voice.

It wasn’t about killing, but about wearing?

“What? What are you talking about!”

Why did Ghibrid’s appearance seem familiar to Kijung? Suddenly, one user came to Kijung’s mind.

“That appearance…?! No way!”

“A human body you know? It doesn’t matter. I’ll discard it soon anyway. Holy Knight, I will wear your skin.”

It was one of the users who had crossed the central continent a few days ago.

The resemblance was not just a superficial imitation but something more profound.


Kijung realized what the similarity implied. Ghibrid’s words were not wrong.

He had literally skinned a user and was ‘wearing’ it.

If that’s the case, what could be inside the skin?

‘It’s no different from the time of bandages! Damn, it’s horrifying.’

Kijung gripped his trembling hand tightly.

It was evident that Bluebeard and Ghibrid viewed Kijung not as an enemy but merely as prey.

Their lack of tension and transparency revealed their confidence that they could kill and feast on Kijung at any moment.

‘That must be…’

Kijung gazed at the dragon heads positioned on the ground. Bluebeard followed Kijung’s gaze and scrutinized them.

―Run, run, Kijung. Don’t get involved without thinking!

―How can I run away when they’re awakening Tiamat? Would you run away, hyung?

―You bastard! That’s not the problem! There’s Ghibrid in front of you, and it looks like a complete one! That thing said it would wear your skin! That’s the bigger issue! Imagine it becoming a chimera or skinning you and using all your skills!!

Kijung was relaying the conversation he had with the Demon King’s Fragments to Leeha in real-time. Leeha was furious and raged.

―You can’t hunt the Demon King’s Fragments alone! It’s a top-grade raid that even one or two rankers can’t handle! Don’t get cocky just because you took down one Pyrot-Cocri clone―

As Kijung didn’t offer any response, Leeha’s voice grew louder, and he started saying even more.

The concern for his hyung was, of course, prominent, and logically, retreating was the only answer for Kijung.

Despite that, Kijung didn’t back down.

―Hyung. I believed in you a lot, even when you did weird things, right?

―What? Why are you bringing that up now―

―Believe in me this time.


“Hoo.”

Kijung looked at Bluebeard. Then, he looked at Ghibrid. There was a complete standoff between Kijung and Ghibrid.

‘Bluebeard is likely immobilized to protect the Dragon Heads. So, it’s just a one-on-one between Ghibrid and me.’

Just as the Demon King’s Fragments had shown confidence, Kijung also carried confidence within himself.

He had a plan built on thorough calculations. Plus, he had the experience of facing Ghibrid once before.

That was what pushed Kijung forward.

“Now that I think about it, Bluebeard, this must be nostalgic for you.”

“Hoho, what are you talking about?”

“It must be an old subordinate you haven’t seen in a long time. Isn’t it?”

“What?”

Bluebeard’s eyes, which had been gazing at Kijung, twitched. The moment his focus shifted to Kijung’s shield, Kijung shouted.

“〈Dinosaurization〉.”

The shield made of Toon’s bones began to wrap around Kijung.

Even as he was being encased in black armor, Kijung saw Bluebeard’s brow twitching.

* * *

『〈Striking Blessing〉!』

Kijung cast a blessing on his weapon and charged forward.

Bluebeard flinched momentarily, but Kijung’s target wasn’t him.

“Hmm.”

Ghibrid also drew his sword.

There wasn’t even a slight awkwardness in seeing a Demon King’s Fragment wielding a weapon like a user would.

Bang────!

As the swords clashed, sparks flew.

The one who was surprised was Kijung.

‘It’s heavy!’

What did I just strike? Did I underestimate him because he’s in human form?

Certainly, that wasn’t the case.

Yet, Ghibrid appeared calm.

How much were Kijung’s stats boosted in the 〈Dinosaurization〉 state?

Despite being a tank who primarily invested in stamina stats, Kijung, now at level 300—close to the previous max level—had also significantly invested in strength.

To think he took such an attack with one hand, without even a change in his expression!

“Have you improved a bit since before.”

『Pretending to be calm! You don’t even know swordsmanship―』

Neither of them understood swordsmanship.

But unlike a typical swordsman, Kijung also fought by combining his body and sword.

With a front kick, Kijung pushed Ghibrid away and immediately charged forward.

The sword he swung diagonally clashed with Ghibrid’s sword, or so it seemed. From the beginning, it had been a feint.

Kijung squeezed his body in close and swung his right elbow.

Thunk―!

The elbow struck Ghibrid’s jaw with a cracking sound.

If Ghibrid were human or an ordinary monster, this would have been enough to stun him. Kijung could have then retrieved his sword and slashed his abdomen, making it an effective combination attack.

“Yes, it seems clear that the power of the Holy Knight’s essence is greater than this essence.”

However, Ghibrid didn’t even flinch.

Despite his lower jaw being displaced and his words coming out slurred, Ghibrid uttered without changing his expression.

“Heh.”

Ghibrid swung his arm.

Kijung, who had transformed into a dinosaur, had to use his entire body to block the seemingly light movement.

Kaaarrrggghhh─────────…!

『Ugh!』

Kijung was thrown back as if hurled.

At that moment, Kijung was grateful that his dinosaur armor covered his head. If it hadn’t, he would have shown his astonishment to the enemy.

‘This―is like defending against a dragon’s attack―no, a serpent’s attack!’

Kijung recalled the strongest creature of the Dragon Palace and the Sea of Dawn, the serpent, merely from the weight of blocking Ghibrid’s sword.

The only difference now was that Kijung had become much stronger than back then.

In other words, Ghibrid’s ‘light swing’ was stronger than the all-out attack of two serpents.

It felt several times more powerful.

“You cannot defeat me, Holy Knight. The time has passed, and you will never be able to defeat me forever.”

『That time? Do you mean back when you were wrapped in bandages? Are you saying you’re complete now? You’re still nothing but filth.』

Ghibrid’s expression didn’t change despite Kijung’s provocation.

He quietly shook his head.

“I am still incomplete. But―”

“Shush, Ghibrid. You talk too much. Just deal with this quickly.”

Bluebeard interrupted Ghibrid, who nodded in acknowledgment.

Kijung looked back and forth between Ghibrid and Bluebeard.

‘His strength is beyond what I can handle, but maybe his intellect…?’

Indeed, Ghibrid was different from the other Demon King’s Fragments.

Compared to someone like Bluebeard or Pyrot-Cocri, perhaps Ghibrid was simply the brute-force type?

The unfortunate part was that even if Kijung formed a hypothesis about his weakness, he couldn’t act on it immediately.

“I will take your body, Holy Knight.”

Ghibrid no longer remained passive.

As if being pushed by Bluebeard, he moved. Kijung could see him tilt his upper body.

But in the next moment,

Ghibrid was already in front of Kijung.

Boom────────!

『Ugh?!』

Kijung hurriedly twisted his body and raised his sword.

Ghibrid sent Kijung, who was holding the sword, flying in one motion. Kijung was thrown so hard that he crashed through two trees entirely. Ghibrid moved again, watching him.

Boom────────!

The sound of his movement wasn’t a special effect. It was like the sound of a meteor collision.

Ghibrid moved so powerfully and swiftly that he left dents in the ground and scattered dust.

『Ugh, what incredible strength―』

Kijung wasn’t fully conscious, but his body reacted on its own.

───, ────, ────!

『―You said you’d take my body, bastard! It’s about to be shredded!』

It was hard to call what Kijung did ‘defense’ as he barely managed to deflect Ghibrid’s swings to minimize the impact.
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Even in his transformed dinosaur state, the sheer force transmitted through his hands, arms, and shoulders made them quiver uncontrollably. It was obvious that the moment his skill deactivated, his body would surely be cleaved in half.

It seemed that when simple and brute attacks reached their zenith, techniques became redundant.

Kijung found himself on the defensive, with no room for counterattacks. Yet, the resolve in his eyes remained unbroken.

Inside the completely armored helmet of Toon, Kijung’s eyes were targeting something else.

‘Just once. If I can use it just once, and catch them off guard―’

As Kijung’s eyes moved, so did Bluebeard’s.

However, Bluebeard was not looking at Kijung.

“Hmm? Since when was that there?”

Bluebeard’s brow furrowed as he focused on something behind Kijung.

Curious as to what Bluebeard was seeing, but too overwhelmed by Ghibrid’s relentless assault, Kijung couldn’t turn his head.

At that moment, Rubini’s whisper pierced through.

—Someone is there, Master Kay! I saw a dot behind you a while ago……

—What?

A voice filled with rage suddenly echoed from behind.

“Must you always… take everything…?”

Whooooosh──────…

Despite the wind growing stronger, the voice remained clear.

“I’ve had enough of this―yay──!”

Boom──────!

A violent blow swept through the surroundings.


At that moment, Kijung realized why Bluebeard looked so surprised and who had suddenly appeared.

『Wh-what? How did you―』

In Kijung’s mind, Rubini’s voice echoed.

—It was Lee Jiwon! Lee Jiwon was following Master Kay! But how he managed to remain hidden on my radar…

Lee Jiwon had been tailing Kijung ever since Raphaela used her super wide-area skill, threading his way through the chimeras.

This was the result of his obsessive determination to locate his target, a target that had humiliated him, in the eastern part of the new continent where teleportation was not possible.

The user who was more furious than anyone about the Demon King’s Fragment! Rank 2, magic swordsman, Lee Jiwon, had stormed onto the battlefield.

* * *

There was no way the community would miss out on discussing the first-ever S+ grade achievement.

Even Lee Jiwon, who had logged out due to death, saw it.

The achievement holder was not Alexander, whom Lee Jiwon considered a rival.

It wasn’t the overwhelmingly active Ha Leeha, nor the Pioneer King Fernand.

From Lee Jiwon’s perspective, it was a fairly insignificant user, Master Kay.

The first cardinal user? Such titles held zero significance for Lee Jiwon.

How had the belittled Master Kay managed to obtain an S+ grade achievement?

“Pyrot-Cocri… you… I cannot forgive you.”

Lee Jiwon knew well about it.

Rumors had flown about how his body had been turned into an undead, and there were also sightings saying Pyrot-Cocri was behind it.

〈Title: LOL isn’t he dead, what a shovel〉

〈Title: Did he join the Demon King’s army like Chiyou?〉


〈Title: -re: Do you believe something without even a screenshot?〉

〈Title: -re-re: Bullshit, partner got system notifications when attacked〉

〈Title: -re-re: Yeah, the rumor about being turned undead seems true〉

〈Title: Did Lee Jiwon awaken Pyrot-Cocri?〉

〈Title: -re: Just a hilarious prank, lOL hahahah〉

“Ugh… Ughhhhh…….”

Once interviewed by foreign media, Korea’s number 1 rank and 2nd rank worldwide, the pride of Middle Earth’s strongest magic swordsman, was utterly trampled.

Tack, tack─ Tack-tack-tack─!

Lee Jiwon’s hands on the keyboard grew faster and faster.

On the three connected monitors, new windows popped up continuously, matching his frenetic keystrokes.

“Pyrot-Cocri… Demon King’s Fragment…”

Letting his trampled pride go just like that was not something the world’s 2nd rank individual would do.

Lee Jiwon’s glasses reflected the light from the monitor.

Within the glinting lenses, his eyes burned fiercely.

“You’re all dead.”

With steely determination and unyielding resolve, whether he was connected to Middle Earth or not, Lee Jiwon’s every thought marched solely in the direction of “revenge”.

Today, he would follow Kijung’s trail until he found Bluebeard and Ghibrid!

* * *

“I can smell Cocri… Perhaps to Cocri—”

“Shut up~ 〈Corona Jet〉!”


Before Bluebeard could finish his sentence, Lee Jiwon activated his skill.

Just like a solar flare bursting, a mass of heat shot out from his black sword.

Bluebeard tilted his hat toward the direction of the Corona Jet and tapped it lightly with his staff.

All the heat from the Corona Jet was absorbed into the floating Bluebeard’s hat.

“Just as expected. 〈Sol Blade〉!”

Lee Jiwon was not dismayed.

He had anticipated from the start that losing one or two skills wouldn’t be an issue.

Fwoosh!

Gripping a sword ablaze with black fire, the magic swordsman charged forward.

Even though he couldn’t combine with a Blink, diminishing the power of his combo somewhat, his assault was still fierce.

“Oh dear, oh dear. Don’t you know that charging like a mad dog will just tire you out?”

With a look of annoyance, Bluebeard gripped his staff like a sword and raised it.

In an instant, with a staff extended like a stem, he blocked Lee Jiwon’s sword.

──────…….

The clash between the sword and the staff emitted no sound.

Apart from the fierce flames from the black sword and the dark energy leaking from the staff seeming like they would devour each other, it was almost impossible to tell their weapons had even met.

“〈Giga Spark〉, 〈Sticky Electric〉!”

Swinging his sword with his right hand and casting spells with his left, Lee Jiwon continued his relentless assault in true magic swordsman style.

“Argh, you little—”

Bluebeard’s hair stood on end as he deflected the electric magic with his nails, unable to counterattack given Lee Jiwon’s superior speed.

The movements of a magic swordsman at full buff, particularly one ranked second in the world, surpassed even those of top-ranked physical fighters.

“How long do you think you can keep this up? The moment I move, you’re finished.”

“Why don’t you try moving? I’ve already confirmed you can’t.”

“What?”

“Pyrot-Cocri killed me? Made me an undead? Hah! In our industry, that’s called a reward.”

Bluebeard’s brow furrowed.

He had underestimated the sheer determination of a Korean player.

How did Lee Jiwon spend his time during his unlogged days? What did he do the moment logging in became possible?

Bluebeard’s eyes quickly scanned Lee Jiwon’s sword.

The black flames emanating from his sword were changing. The heat intense enough to scorch clothes at close range had suddenly vanished. Though the sword remained black, the aura it emitted now was pure darkness.

This was not just any ordinary darkness, nor merely the cold chill of deep underground.

“Damn it… He had the key.”

“Yup~ I know what SolSol is~ Pyrot-Cocri should have kept quiet about any clues.”

Lee Jiwon shouted with a grin.

“〈Sol Blade Reverse〉.”

Completely inverting all the energy of the Sol Blade.

Unlike the solar flare explosion energy, this skill, as mentioned by Pyrot-Cocri, manifested the power akin to the deepest abyss of the underground.

Rather than emitting energy, it absorbed it, like a black hole devouring everything.

Shhhhhhhhh──────……!

The blackness of the sword blade intensified.

The background began to darken as if there was a graphic error where nothing could be rendered, expanding in size from the sword blade.

Starting from the blade, the inky blackness spread out, engulfing Lee Jiwon and extending around Bluebeard.

This was a skill of a completely different nature compared to the dark energy.

The reason why Lee Jiwon was able to remain unnoticed on Rubini’s map, and why the ‘Demon King’s Fragments’ could not clearly recognize him even when observing the battle between Kijung and Ghibrid at a close distance and checking the right moment to intervene!

The spreading black space enveloped Bluebeard.

After cutting it out and failing to paste it back properly, Bluebeard sat at the center, surrounded entirely by blackness.

It was a sight akin to a solitary asteroid floating in the universe.

“Anyway, that Pyrot-Cocri rascal, how bothersome!”

Bluebeard couldn’t even catch his breath. He hurriedly turned around.

Behind him, Lee Jiwon’s sword descended.

────────────……!!!!

The difference from an asteroid in space was that the black space surrounding him was entirely under Lee Jiwon’s control.

“Isn’t this fun? Haha!”

Bluebeard immediately swung his staff at Lee Jiwon, who disappeared into the black space.

“Curse you!”

Yet, Bluebeard couldn’t stop swinging his staff.

Lee Jiwon’s attacks poured in from angles and directions that Bluebeard couldn’t predict.

─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─…….

In a space where sense of distance couldn’t be grasped at all, Bluebeard’s staff and the invisible sword of Lee Jiwon continued their clash.

His shirt’s abdomen was turning blue.

The duel between Bluebeard, who had sustained a fatal injury from Bahamut, and the world’s 2nd rank, who had discovered a new aspect of his weapon, was heading towards a stalemate.

* * *

『This is amazing……. How on earth―』

“Are you getting distracted, Holy Knight?”

Kwaaaang────────……!

Unlike the infinitely silent duel between Bluebeard and Lee Jiwon, the battle between Ghibrid and Kijung was so loud that one could hardly feel anything else.

『What’s the big deal about getting distracted?』

“Hm?”

As the dust began to settle, Kijung spoke up.

Though the heaviness of the attacks was still overwhelming, Kijung was gradually able to react to them.

『It’s always easiest to face those who blindly trust their strength.』

The simplicity of the attack patterns.

One swing, and if Kijung retreated, they’d follow again with another swing.

Even the directions of the swings alternated between diagonal cuts, vertical slashes, and horizontal cuts in repetition.

Unless one was a fool, by the time he had parried his attacks through two cycles, Kijung had no reason not to react.

『A Strike of Conviction!』

This time, it was a vertical cut.

Kijung used a skill and twisted his body’s axis simultaneously.

Though Ghibrid’s attack had not yet started, Kijung was confident.

By taking a lateral step and rotating his axis, Ghibrid’s attack would inevitably lose its target.

Changing the direction of an attack recklessly was not feasible. At least, if one used ordinary muscles.

Thus, Kijung’s attack was supposed to pierce Ghibrid’s heart.

Cracken─────────……!

If Ghibrid’s muscles had been ordinary, that is.

『What the……?』

Kijung was flustered.

The sword of the “Nameless Paladin”, coated with Holy Power, undoubtedly stabbed into something.

Yet, it wasn’t flesh.

“… You underestimated me, Holy Knight.”

Ghibrid’s arm that slashed vertically remained in place.

However, a black mass that had ‘burst out’ of his forearm was blocking his chest region.

“At this point… This mere shell is only a nuisance.”

Indeed, as Ghibrid described wearing a human flesh. His facial muscles moved subtly.

Crack, crackle―

『Crazy…』

He began to peel off his ‘clothes’.

Tearing apart the human skin randomly, black masses started to reveal themselves.

It was the dreadful Ghibrid origin Kijung had once seen in Middle Earth, the most horrifying fusion.

The pure blackness of Lee Jiwon was completely different. Hundreds of eyes and mouths emerged from the filthy, sooty black mass.
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“That body… I will…”

Shwaaaaa—!

Having so many eyes and mouths meant there couldn’t be just one arm.

In an instant, the tentacles that extended had already split into dozens of strands.

“Not a chance! 『Holy Barrier』!”

Kijung, curling his shoulder, struck down the tentacles coming from the front, evaded the attacks aimed at his lower body, and slashed through those from the sides with a diagonal upward strike!

At a glance, the 2:2 battle seemed evenly matched.

From that point on, the Demon King’s Fragments started to exhibit their true power.

The wounds of Bluebeard had reopened. With a pained expression, he was receiving Lee Jiwon’s attacks. That pained expression meant he had started to reveal his strength.

Ghibrid, true to the term “chimeric nest”, was unleashing attacks so varied that it was impossible to discern which was the main body. Unlike the simple attack patterns he used in his human form, the new phase was difficult for Kijung to adapt to.

As Ghibrid began attacking with its main body, it started rampaging, absorbing and destroying everything around it.

After barely fending off two attacks, Kijung was rapidly being overpowered.

If his skill 『Dinosaurization』 ended, Kijung would face imminent death.

Kijung wasn’t the only one in danger.

—Master Kay! No skill?!

—That’s what I want to say! Didn’t you come here because you had something?!

Lee Jiwon’s whisper echoed in Kijung’s head, who was busy evading Ghibrid’s attacks.

Lee Jiwon’s skill was also not permanently sustainable.

Moreover, though he’d found and used clues for a new skill, it hadn’t led to a “second job change.”

In other words, 『Soul Blade Reverse』 was still an incomplete skill, lacking the ability to manifest its hidden powers entirely.


Kijung scanned his surroundings.

If he and Lee Jiwon could join forces, what kind of attack could they launch while still controlling the space around Bluebeard, mocking him?

—Lee Jiwon.

—What?

Fortunately, Kijung still had one last move left.

From the very start, the confidence that brought him here, even without knowing if Lee Jiwon would follow.

Now was the time to use it.

—Match my signal well. Here I go.

—Uh? What signal—

Ignoring Lee Jiwon’s words, Kijung raised his sword and struck down at the Demon King’s Fragments with the wrath of a mace.

『You damn Demon King’s Fragments! Just die already, 『Ahlo’s Mace』!』 It wasn’t Kijung’s anger.

In that crude speech, the intention of Middle Earth’s main deity, Ahlo, was executed.

* * *

“〈Multiple〉, 〈Arrow Spear〉!”

The arrows Bobae shot split into numerous trajectories, expanding to the size of spearmen’s spears as they flew.

The Manticores busily tried to dodge, but the furious arrows managed to wound the membranes of their wings.

“Phew, they are manageable now, aren’t they?”

“It’s probably because the Chimeras’ movements have gotten sluggish too. The more confused they get, the busier the Manticore’s instructions become.”

Hyein leaned on her staff and wiped her forehead.

Although she wasn’t actually sweating, her mental fatigue was considerable. It had been over an hour since Kijung had disappeared.


And the Chimeras had been slowing down recently.

“Is Kijung… doing something?”

“For now, all we can do is believe so. Tale hyung, Jin Gonggong, and Biyemi are struggling too, so let’s put a bit more effort in.”

“Ugh, I want to go over there too, but if Hyein oppa says so… Over there! Get those Manticores!”

“Understood, 『Double Gravity』!”

Hyein slowed one Manticore down with 『Double Gravity』, and Bobae carefully aimed her arrow. Moments later, her arrow flew and pierced the center of the Manticore’s forehead.

As the nearby Chimeras fell deeper into chaos, surrounding users cheered and launched their attack.

Though the battlefront was still complex, it was no longer as tense as before. Thanks to the Bobae and Hyein duo, manticores were falling one by one.

“Unni, how is it?”

“Still… it hasn’t come out yet.”

Around Rubini, many users were still observing the map.

Those who had fought on the front lines and returned to recover, or those who had used support magic like healing or buffs and come back to recharge their MP, were all captivated by the map and had no intention of returning to the front.

It was because there was someone they all earnestly supported with one heart and one mind.

“What about Master Kay?”

“It seems like he’s not dead yet.”

“You idiot, stop being so unlucky! Of course, he’s not dead! Are you hoping he would die or something?”

“Who said anything like that? It’s because the Chimera seems weakened!”

Everyone was solely focused on Kijung’s movements.

“Then is he really going head-to-head with Ghibrid?”

“No matter how much of a Holy Knight he is, is that even possible?”


“He earned S+ grade achievements. They said he can even transform like a Dark Knight. Could that be it?”

Information about Kijung was widely known among outsiders and rankers. He led the guild Byulcho, and the path that the Byulcho guild had walked made him even more recognized.

However, what was known about him was only his name, personality, and way of speaking.

Not many clearly knew what items he used or which skills he possessed.

A mysterious charm spread with his kind and gentle demeanor, further strengthening the name of Byulcho and Master Kay.

“Earlier— didn’t he momentarily shine and a dot appeared? Isn’t that his transformation?”

“A dot? What do you mean? Didn’t you see it wrong?”

Users gave Rubini a wary look, murmuring amongst themselves, but she said nothing.

This uncertain information about Lee Jiwon had only been conveyed to Kijung by Rubini.

And Rubini didn’t feel the need to say anything.

“Huh? Light—”

“What’s that?”

Those looking at the map turned their heads in unison.

A burst of brilliance came from the forest beyond the Chimera frontlines. It was light brightening the twilight sky in an instant.

“Unni, that…?”

Raphaela looked at Rubini with a face full of expectation.

However, Rubini too couldn’t be certain of anything at that moment.

Nevertheless, Rubini had a hopeful expectation.

The meaning behind the light emanating from a place known to harbor the Demon King’s Fragments.

Users who had fought Pyrot-Cocri knew that the skills used by the Demon King’s Fragments had nothing to do with ‘light’.

If that is so, then what remains?

Beep— Beep—!

A beeping sound came from Rubini’s map.

Users turned their gaze back to the holographic map. The map was showing a distinctly different state from just a few seconds ago.

“Oh! Oh-oh-oh!”

“The, the Demon King’s Fragment— the Demon King’s Fragment’s red dot has shrunk!”

“Idiot, look below that! Two dots! Two dots!”

The red dots symbolizing the Demon King’s Fragments, so large they couldn’t even fit on Rubini’s map, had significantly shrunk.

Although they couldn’t completely interpret the areas beyond Rubini’s map, it no longer mattered.

Two new dots had appeared at the borderline of what could be read. Rubini knew what those dots were.

“It’s Master Kay!”

“There’s one more! What’s that? Who is it?”

“You said you saw it wrong earlier! What is that!”

Amidst the noise of the users, Rubini screamed with a voice ready to burst.

“Lee Jiwon! It’s Magic Swordsman Lee Jiwon and Holy Knight Master Kay!”

* * *

Users gaped in amazement.

No one asked if it was really Lee Jiwon, the user ranked second.

As the Chimera force swarmed towards them, the red dots representing Chimeras were disappearing in dozens whenever the new dots shimmered.

Only a handful of users in Middle Earth could exert such power.

Lee Jiwon and Kijung’s locations were rapidly changing.

“Oh, they’re coming! They’re coming!”

“The chimeras on the frontline― the chimeras and manticores on the frontline have turned back!”

“They’re going after Lee Jiwon and Master Kay! They’re blocking the path upfront to capture them!”

Had a directive been issued that they mustn’t let them escape from the chimera nest, the very base of Ghibrid?

The chimeras and manticores that were pressing the frontlines all started to move in a single direction.

The users instinctively knew.

No matter how strong Lee Jiwon was and how renowned Master Kay was as a top-grade tank, it would be difficult for them to fight at their full strength after facing off against the Demon King’s Fragment.

There was no way the two of them could break through such a formidable army alone.

Then, what should they do?

“L-let’s go save them! Let’s go save them!”

“Raise― your swords!”

“Party! Let’s party up with those around us and dash!”

“Line up by job class! Line up!”

The area around Rubini’s map turned chaotic in an instant. And this place was at the boundary between the New Continent’s west and east.

“First formation, charge!”

“Second formation! Those in the second formation, follow me! We’ll pick up Hyein and Bobae along the way!”

“The third formation, led by Raphael, buff up! It’s easier than killing those fleeing bastards~ Slowpokes lose out!”

They were high-level users with plenty of hunting experience.

In this moment when everyone’s minds were united, their movements were as focused as they were when hunting.

In no time at all, the users reorganized their battle lines, broke through the stalemate front, and charged at the chimeras.

The users who had been facing the enemy upfront didn’t fully grasp what was happening but quickly realized what they needed to do.

“Kieeeee―s”

“Rumble grrrr…”

“Die, you bastards! 〈Brutal Crash〉!”

“Kyaaa, Kyaaa―a!”

“Shoot! Shoot the manticores first! Even if you can’t kill them, just chasing them away is effective! 〈Lightning―Crossbow〉!”

The chimeras’ screams and the manticores’ roars melded with the users’ battle cries and skill chants.

It didn’t take long for the stalemate on the front lines to turn into complete chaos.

Throwing their bodies, the users grabbed the chimeras’ ankles, and at a distance, the figure they had been waiting for appeared.

“Heal! Heal!”

Lee Jiwon shouted at the top of his lungs. He was supporting Kijung.

“Master Kay!”

“Kijung!”

Raphael and Bobae rushed towards Kijung simultaneously. Kijung, with his arm draped around Lee Jiwon, quietly raised his hand.

“Hehe… It wasn’t a crazy act, was it?”

His sword-wielding hand rose high.

Lee Jiwon looked at Kijung for a moment. His expression was hardened.

* * *

“… What is this? What’s this mess?”

“Is this a trace of a battle?”

Igor and Pyro were momentarily taken aback as they looked around. Why had a place that should have been peaceful turned into a battlefield?

“Hey, blue― argh!? Wha-what is this? Why are you in that form again!”

“Is there a problem?”

“Of course, there is! Why are you naked!”

Igor was horrified at the sight of Ghibrid’s jet-black form.

Though he was a fearless giant, Ghibrid’s appearance was revolting to him.

Ghibrid didn’t answer Igor’s question. His jet-black skin undulated.

Pyro bit his lip tightly.

Seeing Ghibrid, who had shed his user form, and the devastated surroundings, it was clear something significant had occurred.

“What happened here? If it wasn’t Bahamut―”

“Heh… Bahamut, huh. If it was, we would’ve been fully prepared. The deputy of a god, that thing nurtured quite an amusing monster.”

“What?”

“It’s annoying. Tch.”

Bluebeard turned his head and spat.

Pyro took a deep breath, trying to keep his composure.

Even when fighting Bahamut, Bluebeard’s outfit had remained relatively intact except for a wound on his abdomen.

But now?

‘His sleeves are burnt. The tuxedo jacket is… severely damaged. Did a bomb go off? How could Le―’
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Since he often imagined himself in the “Flame Demon” state fighting against Bluebeard, Pyro knew what to expect.

A normal attack or typical combat pattern would never be enough to defeat him.

What on earth happened here?

“What are you looking at, surprised?”

“Ah, no. It’s nothing. But I brought some food for Tiamat… Didn’t you say we need to find plenty of prey for her since she just woke up?”

Pyro took out various chunks of meat from his bag. He and Igor traveled everywhere to gather food for Tiamat.

Bluebeard mentioned that Tiamat’s condition, freshly released from her seal, would be extremely frail and she needed a plentiful and varied supply of meat.

“Tiamat… that’s the problem. That, that thing.”

Bluebeard gestured with a deeply furrowed brow. It was definitely the ground where the magic circle had been drawn.

The place where the five dragon heads were placed.

“Oh no, who―”

Four of the dragon heads were intact. But one head had been significantly damaged.

“This is troublesome… If it were anything else, it would have been fine.”

Bluebeard clicked his tongue.

Pyro could also recognize it. The damaged dragon head seemed somewhat different from the others.

* * *

―A dragon head? You smashed a dragon head?

―Yep. I don’t know if it had any effect, but right after I reverted from being a dinosaur, I ran over and smashed it with Toon’s bone shield.

―So? What happened?

―I don’t know. Bluebeard was glaring at me like he’d kill me or something. I figured it must be important, so I’m asking you to find out for me, hyung.


―Oh, right. Wait! Wait!

Leeha hurriedly ended his whisper with Kijung.

He had already heard the ‘victory report’ to some extent from the side branch.

‘An incomprehensible light exploded, and Lee Jiwon and Kijung emerged from there… How did Lee Jiwon jump out?’

Leeha had no time to ask that far.

He was busy broadcasting the news he got from Kijung in real-time.

“Bailephus! Bailephus!”

“What is it? What’s the situation? Is Bluebeard alive? What about the Holy Knight?”

“Just a moment—to answer briefly, both are fine. Although, I’d rather one of them be dead. Anyway! That’s not the issue. The method to summon Tiamat! Has there been any contact from Bahamut?”

From the moment Kijung discovered the magic circle and the dragon heads, the ‘broadcast’ had been running.

Naturally, everyone, including users and NPCs here, mobilized all their connections to verify if it was really the summoning of Tiamat.

The most reliable information, of course, came from confirming through Bahamut, the leader of the metal dragons.

“Yes, there is.”

“What did he say? Is it true?”

“The Lord himself couldn’t confirm it completely. If he had seen the magic circle, he could have known for sure… However, he said that by the circumstances, it is highly likely to be Tiamat’s summoning. The six-headed dragon Tiamat, one of her heads is definitely ‘hers’.”

The five heads were made up of other dragon heads, with one being her own. If there were ‘six heads’ and Bluebeard was in a wounded state, Bahamut believed it was certain that it was Tiamat’s summoning.

“Damn it, Tiamat or whatever, what the hell is this…”

“Shh. Just listen quietly.”

“I know, damn Kidd.”

Luger muttered quietly.


Many people, including Fernand, had numerous questions they wanted to ask Leeha about the entity known as “Tiamat”.

However, the atmosphere didn’t allow for interruptions, so they couldn’t help but remain silent.

“Right?! Am I right?! Ugh, Kijung, that lunatic!”

Leeha felt like dancing with joy as he listened to Bailephus.

He hadn’t believed Kijung at all when he bragged about being able to stop the summoning of Tiamat.

In fact, he had been worried that if Kijung turned into a Chimera, it would cause significant damage to the “Sacred Alliance”.

“Why is that, Ha Leeha?”

“It means he did it! The summoning of Tiamat won’t be completed― or at least, not canceled, but it may be significantly delayed!”

“What do you mean by that?”

“Kijung― Master Kay― the Holy Knight did it! Even though Lee Jiwon was with him―”

While Luger and Alexander overly reacted, shouting, “Why Lee Jiwon? Lee Jiwon?” they weren’t louder than Leeha’s current voice.

Bailephus, with a gradually brightening face, was also pestering Leeha, giving them even less opportunity to speak.

“What did you do that’s worth all this fuss? Talk quickly.”

Leeha’s actions were not ‘overdone.’

Kijung had managed to damage one of the sacrifices for the summoning of Tiamat.

“He smashed one of the Dragon heads! One of the heads to be used as a sacrifice for summoning Tiamat!”

“The Dragon head?”

“Yes! And it was…”

Leeha barely contained his overwhelming joy. He had to consider how Bailephus would feel upon hearing this news.

“It was red!”


“Red, you say… Could it be―”

“Yes. The red dragon. Kuzgunak’sh’s head can no longer be used as a sacrifice.”

Kijung had done it.

***

And he had done it far better and more efficiently than Leeha had expected, throwing a crucial wrench into the plans for the summoning of Tiamat.

It was no surprise that Pyro and the other members of the Demon King’s army looked grim-faced.

‘Damn it. If I had known, I should have stationed at least one person there. Where is that Faust… no, where is Sasuke, and what is he doing?’

No one had anticipated they would come first.

Not even Bluebeard or Ghibrid had mentioned the likelihood of anyone interfering with the summoning of Tiamat, let alone hinted at such a possibility.

If Chiyou had been there, they might have been prepared.

Even Faust could have had some other way.

But with both of those brains missing from the Demon King’s forces, they had failed to anticipate this.

It was unfortunate that Sasuke had been off on intelligence missions in the Old Continent.

“What… do we do now?”

Pyro asked through gritted teeth.

If the Dragon Head was damaged, they could simply kill another dragon and take its head.

Faust had already created several Lich Dragons.

Even with just Igor and Pyro, they could easily capture three to four Adult-class dragons right away.

The problem was that Bluebeard also knew this.

The fact that Bluebeard hadn’t suggested this method, despite its feasibility, implied that capturing dragons quickly wouldn’t help at all.

Despite Pyro’s question, Bluebeard did not relax his expression.

He continued to tap Kuzgunak’shy’s Dragon Head placed on the magic circle with his staff.

“What a waste. What a waste…”

“Pyrot…”

Ghibrid muttered a word from the side.

Bluebeard flinched for a moment but soon shook his head.

“This fellow. Pyrot-Cocri, I intended to summon Tiamat to rescue that girl. Is your opinion to call Pyrot-Cocri and make only her head undead?”

“…”

Ghibrid closed his mouth.

What Bluebeard said to Ghibrid was yet another hint for the users.

“Cut! Can you revive only the head? Is the Demon King’s Fragment that powerful as an undead?”

Igor, who didn’t miss the hint, asked. Bluebeard sneered.

“It’s not about reviving the whole body. They could only convert the remaining parts to an undead form and restore the lost parts using ‘other bones’. If we still had the torso, Pyrot-Cocri would be reborn perfectly as an undead… Tsk, tsk, who knows what that damned fool is doing…”

The flesh of Kuzgunak’sh was once used by Faust in the past. Having been completely turned to ash by Bailephus, it could not be retrieved.

However, if it was not about a complete undead but rather a partial rebirth with only some parts being undead?

Bluebeard hinted at that possibility. It was a concept shocking enough to surprise both Pyro and Igor.

“Is it impossible to summon Tiamat as is?”

“It’s possible. It is possible. It could be done by finding and attaching another adult-level head. However, her power would be halved. Kuzi, the fool brought the heads of all metal dragons. Can you believe he didn’t bring the head of his own kin, knowing he might be expelled from the Chromatic Clan?”

“Then…”

“We have no choice but to use this head. Ah, ah. Right, Ghibrid?”

Bluebeard shook his head.

His gaze slowly moved toward Ghibrid.

Although Ghibrid had a human silhouette, he was made up of wriggling filth and lumps of flesh, with hundreds of eyes on his body looking at Bluebeard.

“Well, isn’t it rather fortunate?”

“… What.”

“This… thing.”

Bluebeard smiled.

Pyro and Igor couldn’t discern the truth or feasibility in Bluebeard’s continued words.

“Can you make it into a chimera?”

“Resurrect… Impossible…”

“No, no. Who said to resurrect it? I don’t even hope for that. I mean to turn it into a chimera, not an undead. Just… this head.”

If not a rebirth as an undead but a transformation into a chimera.

Could the dragon head, whose preservation magic was undone and brain completely shattered, be utilized?

The hundreds of eyes attached to Ghibrid’s body widened. By the time his eyes tightened again, Bluebeard burst into hearty laughter.

In the dark night, light began to emanate from the magic circle in front of Bluebeard, Ghibrid, Pyro, and Igor.

* * *

“Now do you understand everything? Oh, I am going mad. Really.”

“So… Tiamat is the counterpart of the metal dragon Bahamut, and while trying to wake Tiamat to pit it against Bahamut, Bluebeard tried to awaken Pyrot-Cocri—your hyung stopped it. Is that right?”

“Yes! Damn! I’ve been explaining for hours, and it’s already daylight! How much more do I have to explain for you to get it?”

Knowing about Tiamat already, Alexander was excluded from Leeha’s “special tutoring”, which continued till dawn with Luger, Kidd, and Fernand as the students.

Of course, only Luger stayed throughout. Kidd had understood everything from the first explanation and was lying on the bed with his eyes closed, while Fernand had gone out to explore Saur Land as soon as dawn broke.

“I understand. I get it, but…”

Luger had a dissatisfied look on his face.

He had understood everything around the same time as Kidd. The reason he kept badgering Leeha until the end was singular.

“How. How did your hyung, that Holy Knight, manage to survive the magic circle guarded by Bluebeard and Ghibrid? Did Lee Jiwon help him? Even if Lee Jiwon was there, it’s impossible. There is no way that bastard, who flickers around with Blink like a housefly, could pull it off. Moreover, in the Eastern New Continent, even Blink is restricted, isn’t it?”

Wasn’t it a 2:2 duel between Bluebeard and Ghibrid, and Master Kay and Lee Jiwon?

What kind of trick did Master Kay and Lee Jiwon use to achieve their goal and even survive in front of Bluebeard and Ghibrid?
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“If they were determined to destroy the Dragon Head, they should have been willing to risk their life. Undoubtedly, both of them would have died. If they intended to come back alive, Lee Jiwon should have escaped while the Holy Knight was tanking. If that were the case, it would have been impossible to destroy the Dragon Head. But achieving their goal and both returning alive? Does that make sense to you?”

“That’s―”

Leeha paused briefly.

It wasn’t that he didn’t want to explain to Luger.

“So, let me explain again. When Master Kay saw the Chimera, he knew it was different from usual. The monster’s movements were clearly abnormal, so he thought that Ghibrid must be up to something and decided to look into it―”

“Hey, you bastard! Who told you to start from there! Just answer the question I asked! Damn it, why does the story always restart when I ask that question! I’m done with listening to this crap!”

“Oh? You’re not going to listen anymore?”

Luger snapped and stood up from his seat. No matter how much Leeha tried to stop him, he brusquely shook him off and stormed out of the room.

Watching Luger’s back, Leeha let out a bitter smile.

‘I don’t know either… what on earth happened.’

Even when he asked Kijung, all he did was laugh.

He didn’t explain what exact method was used and kept it a secret, fussing that Leeha had to see it next time.

Although Leeha was frustrated, he didn’t want to easily give Luger peace of mind with just a simple “I don’t know.”

It was merely a stubbornness.

‘Considering that Lee Jiwon whispered to me, it must be Kijung’s doing.’

Leeha wondered what kind of trick Lee Jiwon used, or if he realized something after dying once to Pyrot-Cocri.

Of course, he actually did use the 〈Sol Blade Reverse〉, but since neither Kijung nor Lee Jiwon talked about their secrets, Leeha didn’t know.

Furthermore, since Lee Jiwon had shifted his focus entirely to Kijung, Leeha couldn’t think much about Lee Jiwon’s secret.

―So jealous. Where did Master Kay even come from?

―What? What did he do, Lee Jiwon? Did you see what Kijung, Master Kay did?


―Totally insane.

After this brief and unsatisfactory conversation, Lee Jiwon ended the whisper.

Leeha, equally irritated, vented his frustration at Luger.

Another troubling matter was Black Bass.

―Heh, heh… how long do you intend to stay here? By midnight tomorrow, my power will dissipate.―

“I know. Dropping to 39.99% was already annoying, but staying another day would bring it down to 29.99%. What a mess…”

Fortunately, all of Kyle’s treatments were to be completed today.

No one knew how well he’d be healed or how he’d change. Naturally, opinions within the group about their next steps were divided.

‘The team wanting to go back immediately, including Browless and all the previous Three Musketeers, preferred this option.’

These NPCs argued that they should head not just to the western continent but back to the old continent entirely.

Bailephus also recommended returning, unsure about what would happen with Tiamat.

However, the users’ opinions?

‘〈Laputa〉…’

Alexander and Fernand strongly advocated for going to Laputa.

With Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle joining, they believed no enemies would pose a threat, and suggested they could visit Laputa on the way back.

Fernand gathering information about Laputa outside was a clear demonstration of his determination to pursue this plan.

‘Meanwhile, Kidd sided with Browless, and Luger sided with Alexander. The only one yet to express an opinion was me…’

―Ha, ha, Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha!

―Yes?

―Quickly! Come quickly! Uh, I’m at the cafe next to the hospital! Quickly! I’m here with Prince Ulrek― hurry, hurry!


The frantic voice echoed in Leeha’s mind. Fernand was urgently calling Leeha.

If the Pioneer King was in such a hurry, it was definitely something extraordinary.

―Quickly? Why? What’s going on―

―‘Laputa’! Ulrek says he’s been there and managed to strike up a conversation with gifts and friendly efforts. He says we can go there, now, immediately!

Leeha’s expression turned as if he had been struck.

When discussing Ulrek and Laputa, Leeha had checked if he’d ever been there, what it was, and what he gained from it.

He had asked about the reasons for Saur Land’s development and its origins but hadn’t asked the crucial question, ‘Can we go there now?’

―I’ll be there right away! Oh right, so they’ll send us? How, are they taking us, too?

―Well, for that… I think we need Ha Leeha! Hurry!

Fernand’s urgency was bordering on excitement.

Surely, Fernand must have asked Ulrek if they could take him, and Ulrek must have declined.

In such a situation, why did Fernand call for Leeha?

‘If it’s Ha Leeha… If Ha Leeha comes―!’

That was belief.

It was the belief that Leeha could solve this problem.

The White Reaper, who had infinite trust from the Pioneer King, was hurriedly descending the hotel stairs.

“Oh, wait, there’s an elevator here, right?”

He still had an untrustworthy face, unable to adapt to the cutting-edge modern civilization of Saur Land and the medieval fantasy setting of Middle Earth.

* * *

―What’s the matter, Lee Jiwon? Did you see it? You saw what Kijung, what Master Kay did, right?


―It was insane.

―How insane? Tell me. I’m dying to know, but Kijung won’t tell me anything― You saw it, Lee Jiwon? What happened? Was it a skill? An item?

Lee Jiwon ended the whisper as he listened to Leeha’s question. He no longer had the confidence to answer.

Lee Jiwon glanced over at Kijung.

At the new continent’s central front where the chimeras had retreated, Master Kay was being treated like a hero.

“Amazing―! What did you do? What skill did you use?! How did you defeat two Demon King’s Fragments in one hit?”

“That’s insane, really. Can I join your party? I’ve been stuck in Middle Earth too!”

“Was it you, Lee Jiwon? How can a level 288 tank deal with a Demon King’s Fragment?”

“You fool, he’s not just a tank! He’s a Holy Knight! A Cardinal! Got it!?”

Kijung clumsily smiled as he barely staved off the players flocking around him.

“Well, it wasn’t just me. Without Lee Jiwon, it wouldn’t have been possible anyway―”

―Are you there?

―Oh, yes?

Kijung, who was about to talk about Lee Jiwon while waving his hands, responded to a sudden whisper.

Lee Jiwon was quite a distance from Kijung. But it was enough for the two to confirm each other’s faces.

―Keep it a secret.

―A secret… Ah, you mean that skill?

―I won’t mention your skill either.

―Alright. Deal.

That was actually what Kijung wanted to request.

Although Lee Jiwon’s black hole-like skill utilization was certainly threatening, Kijung did not want his skill getting leaked anywhere.

Kijung nodded his head.

Lee Jiwon also nodded.

Unlike Kijung with his bright expression, Lee Jiwon had a somewhat gloomy face.

“I learned the skill, but… Sol…”

The pressure of being chased by someone who wasn’t even a top ranker. The unimaginable skill used by someone he once overlooked.

What came after the amazement and surprise was a kind of shame.

His lips turned pale as the Magic Swordsman, who had yet to complete his second transformation, experienced the pressure.

* * *

“What would you like to order?”

“Um, uh… Ah, I’ll have an iced Americano. And, can I also get a cheesecake?”

“Of course. I’ll help you with the payment.”

“Yes, yes!”

Leeha hastily took money out from his bag.

He looked around at the ‘dinosaurs’ enjoying coffee at various tables and wondered what kind of emotion he should feel.

Some dinosaurs were even dressed up, wearing glasses, reading newspapers, or deep in conversations. The snippets of conversation he overheard made him even more perplexed.

Talk of stock prices or complaining about having to work late tomorrow made it hard to recognize them as ‘dinosaurs’.

‘Are these really NPCs? It feels like a miniature version of human society, a human city.’

What was the purpose of creating such a species?

Why create a species that declared it wouldn’t interfere with the life outside the borders, only to hide them at the eastern end of the New Continent?

‘Because of Laputa… It feels a bit excessive.’

If it was because of the gateway called Laputa, there wasn’t a need to design a civilization this advanced in science.

And there was no need to show the ‘bad taste’ of giving all the members the appearance of Toon.

‘I bet there even might be a dinosaur using a smartphone.’

There were already things like cars. They looked like carriages but moved without horses.

Because of that, Leeha felt like he had truly come to a different world.

“Your iced Americano and Chicago cheesecake are ready~!”

“Wow… I was wondering, but it really is called ‘Chicago’ cheesecake.”

Leeha shook his head as he received the tray.

It was as if he was in a global franchise cafe.

“Ulrek-ssi? They said you could go to Laputa right now….”

“That’s correct.”

Ulrek nodded.

An espresso cup was dangling precariously at the tip of his claw.

Though he was a third prince, the security in Saur Land was so perfect that he didn’t even need bodyguard dinosaurs.

“Could we perhaps—”

“No.”

“—…I haven’t even asked yet.”

Leeha smiled awkwardly.

He was comfortable enough to joke lightly like this.

He couldn’t feel the initial dread when first meeting Ulrek and the dinosaurs. Perhaps because their culture and society resembled the ‘outside world’ so much.

“The only one qualified to go there is me.”

“What?”

“Only members of the royal family can go there. However, to prevent indiscriminate access by royalty, the king declared that only the head of the Department of Creation Science could go there. So, only I can go there right now.”

Leeha nodded, listening intently.

How many royals were there in Saur Land? Even Toon, who had escaped here, was a member of the royal family.

If only the royals could go, no matter how high one’s affinity or whatever gifts were given, it wouldn’t be possible.

There was nothing one could do about being from a different species.

“Then, did you go alone to investigate the relics and such? I heard the civilizations’ technology was adapted here from there…”

Compared to Leeha, Fernand was even more persistent.

His desire to go to Laputa was enough to find loopholes in Ulrek’s words.

Ulrek sipped his espresso again. Then he shook his head.

“I’m just the representative.”

“What?”

“I can gather as many researchers as I want. That has always been done by the heads of the Department of Creation Science.”

“Wow?! Then! That means we can also—”

“Human Ha Leeha.”

Though Leeha quickly came up with an idea, Ulrek called him and quietly stared at him.

“Do you still not understand the King’s words on ‘not interfering with external matters’?”

Ulrek spoke firmly.

The moment Leeha saw his gaze, he felt he could understand the grand resolve they possessed.

“…To prevent the technology or relics of ‘Laputa’ from spreading to the outside world?”

Ulrek didn’t answer. That was enough.

If they thought such firm declarations would divert the interest of ‘humans’, they were greatly mistaken.

‘What could be so amazing— that they go as far as to declare isolation just to protect it?’

Leeha and Fernand exchanged gazes. A fire was lit within their hearts.
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Leeha looked at Ulrek, who was drinking coffee with a cold expression. Their intimacy had grown considerably.

Perhaps it was now approaching 100%.

‘Still, that won’t do it…’

That meant perhaps the reward would be given only when 100% intimacy was achieved. Or maybe one had to clear specific quests or fulfill requests regardless of intimacy?

At least, one thing was certain.

‘There’s nothing impossible in Middle Earth.’

Leeha knew it well, and no one had experienced more ups and downs than Fernand.

Especially since Fernand had met more tribes than any other user in Middle Earth, and Leeha had achieved all the intimacy accomplishments in the New Continent, indicating a flexible mindset.

“You said you wouldn’t interfere with external matters…”

Fernand started speaking to Ulrek with a logical conviction that left no room for rebuttal.

“But you’ve been observing external matters. Knowing about the war 20 years ago makes that clear, doesn’t it?”

Ulrek nodded without much response.

“So, it means you don’t interfere, but you’re interested… Is that right? Even 〈Laputa〉 is outside of Saur Land, isn’t it?”

“So?”

“It’s nothing much. I thought maybe I could add a tiny bit to your vast knowledge about Saur Land…”

Fernand rummaged through his bag with a beaming smile.

Leeha had seen Fernand’s smiling face many times, but this expression was on a different level.

“This looks too much like a salesman’s face.”

“Hey, don’t say that now! It’s breaking the mood.”

“Wow… It’s no wonder the Paleos of the New Continent are enamored.”


Even when talking to Leeha, Fernand’s expression didn’t change.

The greatest weapon the Pioneer King could draw from his bag was, of course, a map.

“Here it is.”

Fernand took out the map.

A map that any ordinary user would have wanted to see at least once, the map of the Pioneer King, Fernand!

His map, which could be zoomed in and out like a touch screen, was filled with various notes.

“This contains information not only about the New Continent but also across the sea. Frankly, if I were to auction this map, I could probably buy a whole city.”

Fernand subtly spread the map out for Ulrek.

Ulrek, who had only been staring at his coffee cup, glanced at the map but soon returned his gaze to his coffee cup.

The one truly tempted by Fernand’s allure was Leeha.

“Fernand-ssi, could you perhaps make me a copy of that map?”

“What are you saying! Ha Leeha-ssi, you shouldn’t be saying that!”

Fernand’s words were no exaggeration.

If that map were put up for auction, it could easily buy not just a small town or castle in the outskirts, but even a prime castle or sizable city.

‘This map surpasses any comprehensive guide on any fan page.’

In a way, it could be considered the 〈Ultimate Guide to Middle Earth〉.

Fernand thought he had drawn his trump card right from the start.

A punch that would KO opponents in one blow!

“We have one too.”

“… Pardon?”


Neither Fernand nor Leeha fully grasped Ulrek’s words.

That it wasn’t just any map, but they also had one?

“You were called the Pioneer King among humans.”

“Yes, indeed.”

“Even so, it’s not as good as our map.”

Leeha interjected at Ulrek’s definitive statement.

“Uh, Ulrek-ssi, I’m sorry to interrupt, but this isn’t just any map. It’s a map I can’t obtain even if I give my entire fortune—”

However, it underestimated Saur Land too much.

“That’s why I’m saying it. No matter how much information you’ve included, our map holds even more regions, even more information, I’m sure of it.”

Only then did the two understand.

They realized they were still looking down on this place, saur Land.

“A title like ‘Pioneer King’ is quite embarrassing.”

As Ulrek glanced briefly at the mentally shattered Fernand, he then turned his gaze to Leeha.

“You must have used House-house on your way here.”

“Huh? Yes, how did you know?”

“Because we created them.”

“What!?”

Leeha’s eyes widened.

Ulrek’s lips curled up, revealing his dinosaur molars.

* * *


“Indeed, we do not interfere with external affairs. However, we do not neglect observing the outside. House-house are everywhere on this continent, and the information they gather all flows to us.”

“Amazing! That’s why we could avoid terrains with monsters so perfectly…”

When Leeha first saw the House-house, and when he learned of their functions through Elizabeth’s mouth, he sensed something was off.

They were akin to unmanned drone deliveries.

They were truly similar to ‘unmanned drones’—biological drones controlled from Saur Land.

“The way to Laputa also uses House-house. Of course, those are a bit different from the typical ones we created… Anyway, that’s that. Humans, though our conversation has been fruitful, I can’t allocate any more time.”

Ulrek stood up from the chair.

Fernand, still unable to collect himself, simply stared at him blankly. In a rush, Leeha looked around.

He couldn’t just let him go like this.

‘Dinosaurs… What do they like? Damn, it can’t be money. Skills? Would they be interested in stuff like that?’

They had more advanced science.

They weren’t even intrigued by mana. They could use magic too. So, what could he propose to get them to sit at the negotiating table?

In desperation, Leeha rummaged through his bag.

Some Corrupted World Tree fruits were in his hand. Cooking? Drinks? What should he do?

He had already handed over Toon’s vocal cords and skin when he entered this place.

‘Ugh, please, let something come out, anything!’

Ulrek allowed Leeha some time while he rummaged his bag.

Knowing this was his last chance made Leeha even more desperate. As he wildly dug through, something dropped from his bag.

“Hmm?”

“What, what?”

“That….”

Finally, Ulrek’s expression changed.

To be precise, it wasn’t just Ulrek who changed.

“Ha Leeha?”

“What is this?”

Leeha looked around.

Even the dinosaurs who were seated in the café had all risen. All their eyes focused on Leeha.

Specifically, they were fixated on the large item that had fallen in front of Leeha.

“What is that intriguing item?”

Listening to Ulrek, a smile began to form on Leeha’s face.

“Ahem, where should I start… This story could be quite long.”

Leeha picked up the item from the floor.

It was a bone.

“Though it looks like this, it was obtained from the Demon King’s Fragment. It’s very, very, very rare.”

It was the item retrieved after defeating the avatar of Pyrot-Cocri.

* * *

〈Bone from the City of Shattered Souls in Legends〉

Description: A bone from Peklo City, overseen by Pyrot-Cocri. This enormous bone, about the length of an adult male’s arm, emits a faint light unlike typical undead bones. Its uses are still unknown, but only animals with keen senses, such as dogs, seem to notice the bag in which the bone is stored.

Ulrek’s nose twitched.

The surrounding dinosaurs’ noses also twitched. As sensitive as their noses were, their eyes also moved keenly.

Leeha knew those eyes all too well.

―Ha Leeha-ssi, aren’t they completely crazy?

―Indeed. Do they smell something from the bones? Or do the bones appear differently to them?

Eyes filled with greed, the eyes of a covetous person, were fixed on their faces.

“Ahem, I would like to hear more about those bones.”

The same Ulrek who just said he had no time to spare sat back down.

They lived in a world akin to utopia. It meant there was no particular conflict or strife.

In other words, they had no immunity to greed, right?

“So, what should we do?”

Leeha stood up with a smile.

“I don’t have time right now. Isn’t Kyle’s treatment ending today? I need to prepare to leave with the others. We have to depart tomorrow. Fernand-ssi, shall we go?”

Fernand, with a shameless expression, expressed his regret and followed Leeha.

“Wa… wait! Wait, human Ha Leeha!”

Thwack―!

A dinosaur’s long arm reached across the table and grabbed Leeha’s shoulder.

“Yes?”

Leeha asked casually. What’s the meaning of grabbing me?

Those who lived life getting everything they wanted easily had a vulnerability—they didn’t know how to get what they wanted from others.

“Well… that… that…”

“That? Ah, this?”

Leeha shook the City of Peclosan bone intentionally.

The dinosaurs’ eyes moved left and right following the bone.

“Ahem, would it be rude of me to ask for its components… to analyze them?”

“Analyze? This is just a bone. Though it came from a city created by the Demon King’s Fragment…”

“No, no. Do humans just see it as a mere bone?”

“It’s not just ordinary. It’s a material that could only come out of legends… it’s considered very precious.”

Leeha laughed lightly and put the bone in his bag.

Ulrek gulped. His hand, still holding Leeha’s shoulder, exerted force.

“I-I’m not asking to take it. It’s just for analysis… research as the head of the Department of Creation Science. Such an item is not easily obtainable. You understand that, right?”

Even Ulrek’s speech had sped up.

Leeha suppressed a laugh and spoke.

“Ha, it’s difficult. I can’t get another one of these either. Peklo City is sealed off and inaccessible… what should I do?”

“Perhaps lending it… could that work?”

Ulrek’s voice was desperate.

Conversely, Leeha’s strategy was fully formed. From now on, he’d make them desperate. There was no need to directly mention the trading item.

The other party already knew what they wanted.

So, the key point of this strategy was making the opponent willingly walk into the trap.

“Well… of course, I trust Saur Land, and I am grateful for the hospitality. But lending this is… you know. Just as Ulrek-nim has his difficulties, we feel the same.”

Leeha shrugged.

Ulrek’s gaze wavered for a moment. Leeha was confident. The third prince of Saur Land exactly understood his implication.

Now, they just had to wait until the timing was perfect.

“If we could… satisfy your curiosity, human Ha Leeha.”

“In what way?”

―Hurrayyy―! I knew Ha Leeha-nim could do it!

―Haha, did you see? Did you see? If Fernand-ssi joins us, can you share the map information with me then?

Fernand was already whispering to Leeha.

Leeha laughed heartily at him while maintaining a curious expression, asking, ‘How will you satisfy my curiosity?’

Their ability to flawlessly perform a shameless act was a mark of the renowned outsiders.

“We will appoint you… as a temporary research investigator of 〈Laputa〉. You, human Ha Leeha, and… your companions, if you desire.”

As Ulrek finished speaking, fanfare exploded in Leeha’s mind.
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Bam—!

〈 Achievement: Ticket to Laputa (S) 〉

Congratulations!

You have earned the qualification to go to Laputa! If you couldn’t enter Saur Land, you would never get the ticket to Laputa. What is the entity that restricts entry to Laputa only to Saur Land’s royalty? What secrets does the floating island, nicknamed the land infused with godly power, hold? Why did Laputa have to cut off all communication with the outside world to prevent its secrets from leaking out?

We hope you will confirm the mystery with your own eyes.

Reward: 25 Stat Points

+10% Affinity with the entire Ezwen Theocracy

You are the first to register the 〈 Ticket to Laputa 〉 achievement.

The top three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with an additional 200% effect applied to the original benefits.

Effect: 50 Stat Points

+20% Affinity with the entire Ezwen Theocracy

Leeha looked at the hologram window and grinned.

If he could enter Saur Land, would there have been another way to get the ticket to Laputa without relying on the bones from Peklo City?

He thought it might have been possible.

Anyway, he finally got the ticket, and even though he hadn’t set foot in Laputa yet, he received a grade-S achievement.

Doesn’t that mean that when he arrives at Laputa, he would encounter at least grade-S or above content?

‘Moreover, this is the first time I’ve gotten such high affinity with the entire Ezwen Theocracy! Even with the New Continent Voyage or whatever, there wasn’t an achievement that openly boosted affinity this much.’

Although he was treated almost like a hero by the Vatican, that was merely a form of respect. Most of his connections were built on personal interactions with Urban II, the current pope, back when he was a cardinal.

Since the notification that he achieved 100% affinity had not appeared, Leeha thought this achievement would be quite helpful.

―There’s an achievement notification! Haha, although the level is a bit disappointing.


Leeha cheerfully sent a whisper to Fernand. Leeha wondered what he thought about the achievement.

―Huh? An achievement?

―Yes, an achievement. Fernand, did you not— Ah!?

Leeha realized that the achievement was something only he received.

In other words, the permission to go to Laputa granted by Ulrek was exclusively for Leeha. And Ulrek had told Leeha to select companions for the journey.

Fernand’s expression started to change drastically, and so did Leeha’s pupils dilate at that moment.

That meant Leeha could go to Laputa by himself.

Even if he decided to bring all his companions, the privileges granted to the ‘initial three’ registrants of the achievement would not extend to everyone.

In other words, who would be the first two individuals Leeha would choose?

‘Hall of Fame!’

Leeha had lent the ‘precious bone’ he got from Pyrot-Cocri’s incarnation to Saur Land’s side.

He was using the authority earned entirely by his own efforts.

Should he share it with everyone?

“Ahem… Fernand, shall we head back now? Everyone seems to be gathering at the accommodation.”

“Yes, let’s! Shall I carry you, Ha Leeha?”

From that point, Leeha started to worry about how to ‘take’ from his companions.

* * *

“So, I’m definitely the second one, right?”

“You mentioned something about map copying… what was that?”

“Ah, come on! I’m joking! Do you think I would do that? Ha Leeha and I are pioneers and adventurers in our own right.”


“Doesn’t that mean you’re treating me as a rival?”

“What! That’s not how you see me, is it?”

As they headed back to the hotel, Fernand was desperately flattering Leeha.

After mealtime, all the party members had returned to the lodging. Leeha had explained what had happened to the returned Kyle, Elizabeth, Brown, and Browless.

At once, everyone switched to flattery mode.

They knew that if they made a good impression on Leeha, they could receive a ticket to Laputa, and the first two would even get the Hall of Fame achievement.

“I thought no one else but you, Ha Leeha, could truly enforce justice better than anyone else.”

“You won’t betray the Three Musketeers, will you?”

“… I went out to get some drinks. They say it’s a special beverage from Saur Land.”

Alexander, Luger, and Kidd never left Leeha’s side.

Leeha sat on the couch with his legs stretched out, barely paying attention to their words.

Even Alexander, ranked number one, was no different. Having been rejected by the barrier to Laputa, he understood how precious this opportunity was.

“Everyone keeps talking so much without offering anything, huh? It’s a big problem, a big problem… Tsk tsk.”

Unlike the anxious users, the NPCs watched them with smiles.

Elizabeth, whose eyes were still puffy, was also smiling now.

Of course, there was only one reason she could smile. Leeha stood up from the couch and looked at the man sitting between Elizabeth and Brown.

The man no longer even wore a hood.

The man who had been treated here for a full three days.

“Ha Leeha…

-nim was it? Thank you. My mother told me it was thanks to you that I could receive treatment…”


Kyle offered his thanks to Leeha with an embarrassed smile.

“No. I’m the one who should thank you for recovering so well.”

Leeha responded with a smile. However, deep inside, he felt uneasy.

Saur Land had conducted every possible test and provided all treatments.

Amazingly, it was enough to achieve complete recovery, even for his damaged brain.

But that was all.

It was impossible to separate Jamiell from Kyle, and he remained the “Arcane Sniper.”

‘Damn it! I thought there would be some way for this part too…’

Leeha’s expression betrayed his frustration. Elizabeth, however, smiled and comforted him.

“Don’t think about it too much. We’re already grateful for this much. More importantly… he is no longer entrenched in the demonic state. Not just healing his body pains, but perhaps—”

“It might mean he’s freed from Kaztor’s curse.”

Brown answered, continuing Elizabeth’s words. Browless, as well as Kidd, nodded.

While other users were scattered across Saur Land gathering different pieces of information, Kidd had never left Browless’s side.

“Hey, Kidd! Didn’t you say he wasn’t fully cured—”

“I said he couldn’t escape the state of Arcane Sniper. At least the current Arcane Sniper…”

Considering the game mechanics required at least ‘one user’ for the story to progress, Kidd was able to hear everything that happened in the hospital due to his choice.

Thus, he knew.

“He will no longer be under Kaztor’s control. This means he can shoot ‘Arcane Bullet’ by his own will.”

The true Arcane Sniper was finally born.

Whether this was good or bad, no one could judge yet.

* * *

“Hehehe, then there’s nothing to worry about! We just need to immediately head to Bluebeard, Ghibrid, and Kaztor—”

“Luger.”

Luger shouted excitedly, but Leeha quickly called his name to stop him.

Kyle had an awkward smile on his face. Elizabeth, too, showed a look of regret.

Brown quietly spoke to Luger.

“Luger, you already know, don’t you…”

“Ah, uh, right… Ahem.”

Unable to bring himself to apologize, Luger understood his mistake.

—Geez, man.

“Arcane Bullet” is all seven shots. The moment Kyle shoots, he dies. No, it’s not even dying; it’s called “obliteration”.

It erases the very existence of the shooter, and you say he should just shoot?

—Damn it, but we can’t just let him live without shooting forever! It’s better to let him shoot comfortably!

—That’s just what we users think.

Leeha, Luger, and Kidd whispered to each other.

Should Kyle shoot Arcane Bullet? Should he sacrifice himself nobly?

For the users who considered Middle Earth as ‘just a game’, the statement posed no problem. Though the consequence of a ‘Arcane Bullet’ was ‘obliteration’, a more expansive concept than ‘death’, it was still something that a curious few might have found worth attempting.

However, for the NPCs for whom Middle Earth was their life?

To them, obliteration meant true annihilation.

In the suddenly tense atmosphere, Alexander spoke up.

“The sacrifice of the few for the good of the many is sometimes necessary.”

“Alexander?”

Alexander also understood the concept of the Arcane Bullet. How dangerous, powerful, and conceptual a weapon it was.

“… However, to say it is just would be difficult.”

Totalitarianism, even if dressed as utilitarianism, could not be justified.

Alexander held onto the concept of ‘the execution of justice’ as a conviction, which led him to deep contemplation.

“Then, though it might be a cautious question… Kyle-nim, how many shots have you…?”

In the subdued atmosphere, Leeha brought up the topic again. Clearly understanding the current situation was the top priority.

How many bullets had been fired, and how many more could be fired?

‘And… what about Zamiel?’

The disappearance of Kazzator’s intervention was surely a cause for celebration.

However, one of the effects of Kazzator’s curse was to exclude Zamiel’s interference.

Conversely, if everything was back to normal and Kyle was in a state similar to previous Arcane Bullet Shooters, how was Zamiel’s interference proceeding?

“Calling me ‘Kyle-nim’ makes me uncomfortable. I also remember how much Ha Leeha helped me, not just in treatment but in many ways… Even though I couldn’t speak well, I could hear everything. Please feel free to talk comfortably. Besides, being my mother’s successor makes you my senior.”

“Oh, is that so? Really? Haha! Okay, I’ll do that.”

Leeha, slightly taken aback by Kyle’s friendly approach, quickly adapted.

Kyle’s smile was clear but somehow faint.

“I have not used a single Arcane Bullet yet… hence it feels like this rifle is tightening around my head.”

It was inevitable. Everyone’s eyes followed Kyle’s fingertip.

He pointed to the Arcane Rifle leaning against the wall.

Leeha bit his lip.

Despite Kyle appearing normal, the reason why Elizabeth and Brown couldn’t laugh freely was clear.

Kyle was completely free from Kazzator’s curse.

In other words, Zamiel’s full-blown interference had commenced.

“Ah, now that I think about it, can Elizabeth-nim use that rifle now?”

“The moment Kyle’s treatment was completed outside the hospital was how I knew.”

“What?”

Brown answered.

“Liza… fainted.”

“The fainting didn’t last long. I saw something dark pass in front of me then. It came with the remark that if I touched the rifle again, it would kill me.”

Additionally, it meant that Elizabeth could no longer use the Arcane Rifle.

It also clearly showed what would happen to those unqualified who touched Arcane Bullet rifles.

Luger quickly averted his gaze from the rifle leaning against the wall.

* * *

By dinner time, the lively atmosphere had returned. Kyle was also enjoying a meal with a smiling face alongside Elizabeth and Brown.

At least at that moment, worries about the Arcane Bullet and Zamiel were all cast aside.

As NPCs enjoyed their meals, the users also savored luxurious dishes.

Well-prepared food generally had stat-boosting buff effects, and in Saur Land, almost every dish could provide such buffs due to its high quality.

Of course, even as they exchanged laughter and trivial chatter, the users’ minds were working rigorously.

―What will you do next?

―Since Ha Leeha has gained access to Laputa, it would be rational to visit there first…

―Just so you know, Ha Leeha! If you won’t give me the Hall of Fame achievement, make sure Alexander doesn’t get it either!

―Be quiet, Luger.

Ultimately, most of the conversation revolved around planning their next moves.

It was the same for Leeha.

‘There are two ways.’
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— Hmm, if you’re worried about the regular NPCs, we could at least stop by the central part of the New Continent. Since Ha Leeha is with us, we can continue to access Saur Land… Taking them to a safe place and coming back is an option.

Fernand, who had actively advocated for a trip to “Laputa”, proposed a compromise.

— Now that we can use ‘Arcane Bullet’, if Kaztor ever found out… even if we take them to the central or western New Continent or even the Old Continent, they would constantly be at risk of an attack.

— So, Alexander, you’re saying… we should keep them with us, right?

— Dangerous items are often safest when kept close by.

It was Alexander’s opinion that they should stay together to prevent the NPCs from falling into enemy hands.

Since Leeha already held the ticket to “Laputa”, it was a given that they would go there, sparing them from any major disagreements. However, the users all saw both pros and cons in the two opinions, making it difficult to choose readily.

There was only one straightforward option. Leeha, after a brief moment of contemplation, spoke up.

“Senior Elizabeth, senior Brown, and, uh, Kyle?”

“Yes, senior.”

Kyle answered on behalf of the group.

Why did Fernand propose a compromise? It was because they were seeking a “safe place”, and in their minds, that safe place was their homeland, the Kingdom of Fibiel.

So, what if they slightly altered that concept?

“How about coming to ‘Laputa’ with us? It’s a land infused with divine power and seems distant from the Demon King’s Fragment or Kaztor. We might even uncover other secrets about ‘Arcane Bullet’ there. Or….”

Leeha made eye contact with each of the NPCs, especially focusing on Kyle’s expression.

“We might be able to… eliminate Zamiel. Who knows, it might be possible.”

Kyle’s brow momentarily furrowed. His face showed what looked like brief pain as if something had pierced through him.

Zamiel must have surely heard Leeha’s words. What had he said to Kyle?

“How about it? Can you hear Zamiel’s voice? Can you convey what he said to us?”

Kidd approached Kyle to ask. As the “brains” of the Three Musketeers, he wanted a detailed answer, but Kyle shook his head quietly.


“It’s impossible.”

“Why?”

Luger glared at Kyle. Even without a threatening tone demanding the truth, Kyle was already answering sincerely.

“It’s our ‘contract terms’.”

Kyle said with a smile. Luger wanted to ask what these contract terms were, whether all of Arcane Sniper had to make a contract, but he kept his mouth shut. He would eventually find out anyway.

“It makes sense. Returning to our homeland would only mean hiding. Bess, didn’t you say the same about Arcane Bullet? Without any special way to cure it, waiting there would mean…”

Rather than waiting for death, it was better to challenge it. Though Browless trailed off his sentence, everyone understood. Leeha also somewhat comprehended the NPCs’ feelings. They had only suffered until now, living like fugitives for twenty years, so it was natural they wanted to rest.

He fully understood that sentiment, but resting wasn’t the answer. This was the best possible solution at present.

“It would be safer this way. At least if we get to Laputa! Kaztor, who’s not qualified, won’t be able to enter! And if we can’t self-sustain food, well, there might be a way to deliver supplies.”

The safe place wasn’t the Old Continent but the newly discovered floating island.

As Leeha spoke, Elizabeth and Brown’s expressions changed.

“Dear?”

Elizabeth called out to Brown with a resolved look on her face.

Brown, reflecting her sentiments, replied, “We’ve been pushed this far; we shouldn’t show any more weakness. We’ve lived in this place free of human traces for twenty years, so there’s no reason we can’t survive on that sky island, right, honey?”

“Of course! Son, are you okay with it too?”

“Yes. As long as I’m with you and Father, it’s fine. As long as there’s even a slight chance… I’ll go anywhere.”

The family of three embraced each other tightly.

Browless looked at them with a pleased expression.

If the plan was set?

There was no need to delay anymore.


“Alright! Then, let’s all go together! We leave first thing tomorrow! Besides, black— ahem! Anyways, I am in a bit of a rush myself.”

Leeha hastily changed his words.

Regardless of the choice, the person who needed to move quickly was none other than Leeha himself.

― Hehehe… 24 hours from now. After 24 hours, my strength will start to leak. ―

‘I know. Shh!’

The current charge of Black Bass was 39.99%. Given it was already late at night after dinner, it would be right to say he had 24 hours of leisure left.

Thus, he needed to charge it as soon as possible.

‘I’ve already captured all the monsters nearby. Even if there’s nothing in Laputa, there could still be new life forms considered as monsters.’

Black Bass would enter a sleep mode again if its charge fell below 10%.

In other words, if it dropped to 29.99% and he couldn’t supply new blood, Black Bass would fall asleep again ten days later.

“Ahem, so Ha Leeha-ssi? About the achievements we were discussing earlier…”

Once everything was settled, Fernand quietly approached Leeha.

Alexander perked up his ears, carrying his plate, and strode over to sit down beside Leeha.

“This is really delicious.”

“Pfft, not this kind of thing! Alexander, you’re the number one ranked player! Spill some secrets!”

Leeha couldn’t help but laugh at the absurdly frugal (?) attitude of the top-ranked Alexander.

While Bailephus sighed, saying, ‘He is losing his qualification as my partner’, Luger and Kidd remained silent.

― Did you hear?

― If you heard it, of course, I did too.

― Tch, acting all tough. Anyways, Ha Leeha, just like during the conversation with Elizabeth last time…


― Hmm. You’re probably right.

The two were whispering to each other.

Kidd and Luger’s gaze lingered on Leeha briefly before moving simultaneously.

Their gaze was on Black Bass.

― He has awakened him.

Both crossed their legs simultaneously.

Then they observed the weapons neatly arranged on their side.

Luger’s eyes fixed on the Cobalt Blue Python, while Kidd’s gaze locked onto the Crimson Geckos.

― Damn brat.

They were waiting.

Waiting for their Ego Guns to awaken.

* * *

“Is there anything we forgot?”

“How could there be! Ha Leeha-ssi, you compared them directly yourself!”

Leeha alternated between the two maps in his hands before speaking to Fernand, who shouted back in an indignant voice.

“Hehe, alright. I get it. We’ve confirmed Fernand, and for the other spot—”

“How about three agility-related achievements? All three are grade A. I guarantee you haven’t acquired them yet.”

“Ugh, more importantly! Look! 〈Greaves made of Heroic Stone Ape’s Hide〉! It significantly increases physical defense and enhances jump power! There aren’t many agile items offering such good defense!”

Kidd and Luger’s struggle to obtain a spot in the Laputa journey Hall of Fame was quite desperate.

Leeha was thoroughly enjoying the situation with a chuckle.

Time had passed noon. Since they were to meet Ulrek after lunch, it was practically the last moment within Saur Land.

‘I might come back someday… but for now, it’s a bit regretful.’

What else could he have gained by staying here longer? There might have been opportunities to obtain secondary weapons fused with Saur Land’s technology, like pistols.

However, due to issues related to Kyle, Leeha had been too busy being dragged around by Elizabeth and Brown to gather specific information.

Under these circumstances, it might have been a good opportunity for the users, excluding Leeha.

“Is Alexander really not going to have anything in the end!?”

“Hmm…”

Alexander shook his head.

While he felt greedy, discovering a new side to him that made Alexander keep his own possessions hidden was an enjoyable moment for Leeha.

However, it wasn’t a good idea to favorably mention either Luger or Kidd in particular.

“Alright then, there’s no helping it. Both the achievements and the leggings look good. It doesn’t seem like it’s up to me to decide.”

The delicate balance in the relationship among the Three Musketeers meant that although Leeha could tilt the scales with his own power, he didn’t want to break the balance by becoming excessively close to either of the others or by flattering them.

“Hmm?”

“What? Then why―”

“Let’s decide by making a bet.”

Therefore, Leeha proposed a bet. Not just any bet between Kidd and Luger, though.

There was one more piece of information Leeha wanted to verify at this time.

A sly grin spread across his face. That face pointed toward Kyle.

“Remember what Brown once said?”

“Me? What did I say?”

“To our Browless. That Kyle’s skills are better than ours. Don’t you remember?”

Leeha was curious about Kyle’s shooting skills.

Brown clapped his forehead and laughed out loud.

“Ah, right! Now I remember. It was so obvious I momentarily forgot about it.”

“You probably forgot because it was such a ridiculous lie.”

Suddenly interrupting, Browless lifted the brim of his hat slightly, his eyes sharpening.

Seeing Browless’s expression, Brown shrugged his shoulders.

“Brow, as I’ve mentioned before, if you can’t recognize the gap between your skills and mine, it would be quite troubling.”

“Ha… Indeed, if it’s Saur Land, it might be well-suited as your grave, Brown. Overconfidence only leads to unmarked graves, a lesson you might personally demonstrate.”

“Hey, gentlemen! My point is… that we should test it out, right now!?”

Just as tension was rising, Leeha quickly intervened. Brown and Browless, who were about to draw their weapons, turned to look at him.

Kidd, Luger, and Kyle also directed their gazes at them.

“A test? How?”

To Elizabeth’s question, Leeha pointed at the three individuals one by one.

“Heh, I think it’d be fun to have a competition between Kyle, Kidd, and Luger. Maybe a casual shooting contest? That way, we can see who among you seniors is truly superior, don’t you think?”

Leeha’s heart was pounding excitedly.

―What are you up to?

―Do you plan to test us?

Luger and Kidd looked as if they thought it was a ridiculous proposition.

Perhaps Leeha wanted to see those very faces. Barely holding back his laughter, Leeha spoke to them.

―Why? It’s fair, isn’t it? Afraid you’ll lose to Kyle? Then back out if you wish.

―Grr… This guy…

―Backing out is not an option. After all, neither Kyle nor Luger can possibly match up to me.

―What’s that!? You wanna go!?

Once they stepped in, they couldn’t back out of the esteemed S-level achievements and the Hall of Fame. Formally speaking, they were unable to escape the pit that Leeha had dug for them.

‘I’m curious about Kyle’s shooting skills, but…’

Leeha looked at Luger and Kidd, who were bickering.

He knew they caught two Adult Lich Dragons each. With what skills? How?

‘These two are really noteworthy individuals.’

Leeha needed to verify the changes in Luger and Kidd’s skills. He was satisfied with the grand picture he had painted.

“Okay! So, what will the rules be?”

Just before they exited Saur Land, this final festival was about to begin.
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Ulrek could not hide his surprise.

The vicinity of the large vacant lot, which had been reserved for development delay, was now crowded with dinosaurs.

“Human Ha Leeha.”

“Ah, Ulrek-ssi! Has it already been that long?”

“T-This… what is going on?”

Regardless of the need for separate mealtime for players, and with the NPCs’ judgment that ‘current affairs’ were important, Leeha’s party decided to proceed with the confrontation.

This location had been chosen by Luger, who had roamed around Saur Land, and the dinosaurs had stopped to watch the humans clanking about while taking out all sorts of weapons.

“It’s nothing special. Oh, come to think of it, I forgot to mention that it might get a bit noisy for a while. Just a moment before leaving, you know, to check the condition of the weapons! Ulrek-ssi, you said you needed to go outside of Saur Land, right? To take the House-house to Laputa, right? We’re just checking before heading to a perilous place, haha.”

Leeha, although momentarily flustered, skillfully persuaded Ulrek.

It was the only reason for the gunfire echoing in an otherwise peaceful place.

“Hmm… it shouldn’t matter since I’m not going alone.”

“Pardon?”

It was then that another dinosaur came into Leeha’s chaotic view, baring its teeth behind Ulrek.

“Human Ha Leeha-ssi, pleased to meet you. I am Ji-em.”

“Oh, ah, yes.”

He approached Ulrek and, with a sociable gesture, extended a handshake to Leeha.

Leeha grabbed the extended arm of the dinosaur; it was a different entity from the secretary dinosaur he had seen last time.

“It’s been years since we last went to Laputa. We thought there would be almost no need to go, now that our research is nearly complete. But it’s fortunate to get another opportunity like this.”

“Oh, yes? Yes, indeed.”

Leeha felt flustered watching the dinosaur speak at such an incredible speed.


Apart from the king and Ulrek, with whom he had engaged in serious conversation, Leeha had also seen many dinosaurs in cafes, streets, hotels, and hospitals.

‘Still, I don’t think I’ve seen such a noisy dinosaur before.’

And with a smiling face? For some reason, Leeha thought of Lark.

A strange creature approaching with a sudden smile and familiarity. Even though it was with Ulrek, Leeha somehow felt he needed to be wary of it.

“So, what are you going to do?”

“Oh, it will be over soon. Please wait a moment. Just take a look around! We’ll show you that we’re not such simple humans!”

Leeha gave Ulrek a rough greeting and then rejoined his party.

“At any rate, we only have one test! Let’s proceed in three categories: 『Pierce』, 『Accuracy』, and 『Rapidfire』.”

The basis and root of the Three Musketeers.

Since it was already discussed, there were no particular complaints.

“Just hurry up and start.”

“You can be the target yourself.”

Luger and Kidd, brimming with enthusiasm, held their firearms.

“Um… Do we really have to, senior Leeha?”

“Of course! We definitely have to! How can we not have an initiation ceremony!?”

“Right… haha.”

Only Kyle, who had the face of a sickly pretty boy, smiled awkwardly under the breaking sunlight. The gun next to him seemed almost bigger than him.

“Son, do your best!”

How long had it been since such an event occurred for Elizabeth?

Watching Elizabeth cheer energetically, Leeha felt somewhat warmed in his heart.


“Alright! Bailephus-nim will assist as the target! The first category is 『Pierce』! Let’s see how many of the overlapping barriers created by Bailephus-nim you can break!”

“I didn’t use much mana to lower each barrier’s defense power. It’s a test to see pure penetration power and destructiveness.”

“As expected of an Ancient Dragon. Your quick thinking is unparalleled. Alright then! Ready?”

After giving a ‘thumbs up’ to Bailephus, Leeha looked at the ‘players’.

Luger, Kidd, and Kyle nodded.

Three barriers, each a different color, were formed about 100 meters away from them.

“From the prepared shooters, fire!”

A single-shot match without skill restrictions! Luger was the first to step forward.

“I’ll grab the first victory, 〈Acht-Acht〉!”

The blue mana surrounding his Cobalt Blue Python startled the surrounding dinosaurs.

Among the murmuring crowd, Jiem standing next to Ulrek particularly had his eyes shining.

“I don’t like the single-shot match rule, but I won’t lose. 〈Execution〉.”

There was no shortage of lethal skills in 『Rapidfire』.

Kidd also possessed one-shot skills specifically designed to penetrate the enemy’s body with a single shot.

Leeha’s heart pounded as he watched the Crimson Geckos turn a heated red.

‘I wonder just how powerful that will be—hmm?’

His expectation that Kyle would use some skill soon was quickly shattered.

Unlike the two people who took some time for the skill activation, Kyle calmly assumed a kneeling shot stance.

“I will shoot.”

He didn’t even take special aim. He used no skills.


Holding an abnormally long barrel with just his hands, without any stabilizers or bipods, he pulled the trigger.

At that moment, the skills of Luger and Kidd also completed casting.

“I’m going too!”

“I am the same.”

───────!

“Whoa!”

“What an incredible sound!”

The sound of cannons and gunfire was so powerful that the dinosaurs staggered back.

Leeha’s party members were equally thrilled. Fernand openly took out binoculars to examine the barrier, and even Alexander, pretending to be uninterested, couldn’t hide his gaze.

“Bailephus, what’s the result?! Is there a tie—?”

“There is no tie. The outcome is clear.”

Bailephus didn’t need to check; he could tell because he had created the barrier.

His expression hardened slightly.

“What happened? Who won?”

“It’s obvious, isn’t it? Just proceed with 『Accuracy』!”

It was Luger who snorted at Leeha’s question. He deactivated the 〈Acht-Acht〉 skill and began reloading his Cobalt Blue Python.

Kidd, hearing Luger’s confident words, lightly shook his head. Was there no avoiding the outcome of the 『Pierce』 competition?

“How will we measure the distance of 『Accuracy』? In kilometers from here—”

“Kyle is the winner.”

“…what?”

Interrupting Luger’s words, Bailephus calmly declared. Leeha was also surprised, thinking Luger would be the winner.

“Wha- Bailephus, what about 『Pierce』—”

“Yes. Kyle is the winner. There were a total of 30 overlapping barriers for each participant. Kidd destroyed 11, and Luger destroyed 23.”

“And Kyle?”

“Ha Leeha, can’t you see that?”

Bailephus pointed to the barriers 100 meters away. Fernand dropped his binoculars before Leeha had even looked.

“Oh my god….”

“What the….”

Leeha also had to gape like Fernand. The remaining barriers’ colors were only two.

“… Completely destroyed?”

It explained why Bailephus’s expression was not good.

Out of the barriers allocated to the three, Kyle’s had entirely vanished.

Luger’s biggest skill, 〈Acht-Acht〉, destroyed 23 barriers, while Kyle shattered them all with a single bullet.

Luger wore the most dazed expression.

His gaze had completely lost focus, staring blankly into space.

* * *

“You truly are our son! Well done, so well done!”

“But, um, mom, the seniors are watching.”

Elizabeth hugged Kyle, bouncing with joy. She looked as excited as a teenager.

“Ahem… Well, it’s only natural. I told you from the start, didn’t I? How amazing our Kyle is.”

Brown felt the same way.

He wasn’t as animated as Elizabeth, but his flushed face and twitching mouth corners betrayed his excitement.

Contrary to this, Browless…

“… Kidd. Luger.”

Browless no longer attached the honorific “ssi” as he pushed his hat down and approached them.

“T-Teacher!”

“Director! Wait a moment! That gun is too―”

“Are you… not going to do it properly?”

The grinding sound of teeth reached even Leeha’s ears.

Leeha subtly turned his head and stepped back. There was nothing good to come from getting involved needlessly.

Luger, more flustered than ever, tried to soothe Browless.

His primary thought was that they needed to calm down the “mentor-like NPC” who was angry, but Luger’s expression started to change gradually as well.

“Of course! I’ll do it! Ahem, anyway, that gun… was beyond my expectations.”

In some sense, Luger felt that no one was more wronged than himself.

“It was just that I didn’t know. If I get one more chance… I can show a different side.”

Luger’s teeth ground against each other again.

“Do you think that opportunity will come again? The test for 『Pierce』 has already ended.”

“Test? What does that matter? What’s important is real combat, real combat! Damn it… it was wrong to―touch Acht-Acht…”

Luger kicked a pebble at his feet hard.

Kidd snorted and practiced drawing his Crimson Geckos from his holster. Browless watched his movements intently.

“『Pierce』 may have been careless, but 『Rapidfire』 won’t be.”

“… I trust you, Kidd.”

Browless’s face relaxed a bit, likely because Kidd’s skills had met the NPC’s expectations.

With the atmosphere easing slightly, Leeha raised his voice again.

“Alright, ahem! The second event is 『Rapidfire』! Competitors must use only one rifle, and the winner will be the one who destroys the five randomly generated targets in the shortest time! Of course, Bailephus-nim will take care of target generation!”

The rule about using only one rifle was, naturally, tailored to Kidd.

Everyone had to hit the same five targets, which was more disadvantageous for Luger, who wielded something closer to cannonballs than bullets.

Even so, Luger was laughing.

With an expression as if he meant to tear Kyle apart.

Kyle himself, who felt Luger’s gaze, just scratched his head awkwardly.

“The first contestant will―”

“I’ll do it. Tch, I’m going to make that smug face weep tears of blood.”

Luger, whose pride had been trampled on, stepped up first. Bailephus cast a spell as he looked at Luger briefly.

“Are you ready? Five targets will be generated simultaneously at a distance of 30 meters, and their positions will be unknown to you.”

“Shut up and just summon them, you golden lizard.”

“Ahem… I’ll fix that impudence of yours one day. Ha Leeha?”

“Understood! Everyone looking forward, raise your hands above your heads!?”

Leeha shouted excitedly.

No dinosaurs responded. Only Fernand awkwardly raised his hand and then hurriedly put it down. Leeha clicked his tongue and started the countdown.

“Then we start, three, two, one— go!”

As Leeha lowered his arm, Bailephus summoned five targets. As expected, they were barriers.

Very thinly set barriers.

“Kahahahaha—! This time, I’m the winner!”

From the moment Leeha had started counting, Luger had already been aiming somewhere. At the signal, without even specifically targeting, he pulled the trigger.

Boom────!

“Whoa!”

“Crazy― explosion?!”

His confidence stemmed from the fact that he planned to use explosive ordnance from the start.

Considering the players’ skills present, there were no significant injuries, and the dinosaurs were merely startled and stepped back, avoiding any direct harm.

However, from Leeha’s perspective, as the supposed organizer of the event, it was utterly bewildering.

“Hey, how can you use a High Explosive Shell! This was a quick-fire contest, not an explosion contest!”

“The condition was to destroy all the targets, wasn’t it? I complied with the condition you set.”

The only condition was that they had to use one gun.

Given that was the sole condition, Luger had technically followed the rules.

Leeha sighed and shook his head. But Luger could not be purely happy.
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“Luger.”

“Kyakya, why are you calling, Golden lizard! My explosive skills―”

“One target remains.”

“―wha, what?”

It was Bailephus who generated the targets.

He was never going to cluster the targets together for easy shooting, especially for someone like Luger who mocked him as a “Golden lizard”.

Among the targets spread as widely across the shooting range as possible, one remained out of the explosion’s radius!

“Wait a minute! What’s this? Why― why spread them so widely―”

“It’s within the range. Let’s proceed to the next.”

As Bailephus shoved Luger aside to resume the contest, Leeha had to stifle his laughter to continue.

“Ahem, okay! The first shooter Luger is eliminated, and the second shooter is―”

“I’ll do it.”

『Rapidfire』 Kidd.

Kidd had already drawn a Crimson Geko from his holster and set his hat aside solemnly.

Seeing his unusually serious face even made Leeha feel tense.

“Second shooter! Are you ready?”

Kidd nodded at Leeha’s question. He attached one Crimson Geko to his waist.

’30 meters is quite a distance…’

In reality, there were rapid-fire revolver competitions, but the targets were typically no more than 10 meters away.

Was he planning to rely solely on his intuition to shoot at a distance almost three times that, without using the sights?


“Then, Bailephus, get ready! Three, two, one― Go―!”

─────────────…….

“―Go― wha― Whoa!?”

Before the “Go” command was fully out, Kidd had already turned. Bailephus, blinking, checked where the barrier was forming.

There was nothing there anymore.

As Kidd picked up his hat and put it back on, he asked Leeha.

“Five shots. How long did it take?”

No one heard five distinct shots. The sound of shots had blended into one, lingering in the players’ ears.

It was an almost immeasurable moment.

* * *

“Uhhh… Kidd.”

“It was nothing.”

Browless called Kidd with a look of admiration. Kidd spoke modestly, but he was confident of his victory.

“You! I could have done it with my 『Pierce』! If only I had used my 〈Acht-Acht〉―”

“I know. You could have undoubtedly destroyed all 30 targets.”

“… Grrr… Being recognized so easily feels even worse!”

Luger felt a mix of joy and frustration as he excitedly stood beside Kidd.

Leeha turned to ask Bailephus.

With his own senses, Leeha couldn’t confirm the result that seemed “almost simultaneous.”

“Bailephus-nim…?”


“If my calculations are correct… all five barriers disappeared in 0.043 seconds.”

“… What?”

“Uhm, no, I mean… I’m double-checking the mana flow and where it breaks― but the mana disconnect occurred about 0.0086 seconds after the first barrier disappeared.”

This meant that it didn’t even take 0.01 seconds to fire a single revolver round.

The total time Kidd took to shoot all five bullets and hit the targets was a mere 0.043 seconds.

‘One blink of an eye is about 0.1 seconds, roughly 100 milliseconds. But― for shooting…’

To fire five rounds in approximately 43 milliseconds? Theoretically speaking, in the time it takes to blink, he could fire ten shots and still have 14 milliseconds left?

“Insane…”

And it wasn’t even an automatic shooter?

It wasn’t continuous fire. It required sequential action—cocking and pulling the trigger for each shot.

Even with both hands, could fanning the hammer reach such an extreme speed?

The earnest 『Rapidfire』 exceeded the party’s realm of understanding. Even Alexander watched Kidd with a shocked expression, making it no exaggeration.

“Then, can I go next, senior Leeha?”

“What?! Ah! Yes, it’s Kyle’s turn! Bailephus-nim! Please prepare!”

Even Elizabeth and Brown were engrossed in observing Kidd. Among them, Kyle alone maintained his composure.

Kyle adopted a standing shooting position.

He, too, did not particularly aim. Leeha assumed this was because the target’s spawning locations were random anyway.

“Then, three, two, one―”

“Go ahead.”

“―Go!”


As soon as Leeha gave the signal, he heard Kyle mutter softly.

───────……!!!!

“What… is this?”

All five barriers were shattered into pieces.

‘It’s not even five shots. The number of shell casings on the ground…’

Leeha felt a sudden chill run down his spine.

He had thought this would be a good opportunity to properly assess the skills of not only Kyle but also Luger and Kidd. That’s why he had come up with this playful challenge.

However, he couldn’t shake off the feeling that he had somehow made a mistake.

‘… Kyle has changed somehow.’

The reason for this feeling was Kyle’s expression.

The young man who used to shyly withdraw, saying, ‘Do I really have to do this, senior?’ was no longer there.

“How long did it take me, dragon-nim? Did I win?”

Watching the 《Arcane Sniper》 fixated on the outcome, Leeha had to keep a composed expression as much as possible.

Kidd was frowning while Luger was so shocked that he was almost rubbing his face in astonishment, but it was not the time to be surprised yet.

“……0.042 seconds.”

“Impossible! A record like that can’t exist! There’s no way a rapid-fire shot faster than my fanning in 〈High Noon〉 mode can exist―”

“The mana’s records are clear, Kidd. And it wasn’t rapid fire.”

Kidd protested immediately to Bailephus, but the Gold Dragon shook his head.

“If it wasn’t rapid fire, then what?”

“It was a single shot.”

“What’s that―”

“What!? Ha!”

Luger, who was observing beside them, was so astonished that he almost lost the strength to stand.

“This is driving me crazy. Are you telling me a single bullet danced around and shattered all those barriers? And it’s stronger than my penetration but faster than that guy’s rapid fire? No, it’s not just faster; how did a single shot break all five?”

No one could provide an answer to Luger’s question.

Even Browless, Kyle’s parents Brown and Elizabeth, wore expressions of bewilderment.

For the strongest NPCs, Kidd’s 『Rapidfire』 was already considered perfect, and anything faster was deemed physically impossible.

But there existed a bullet faster than that?

And it didn’t shoot five times; it took out five targets with one shot?

‘Could it be… that?’

Leeha swallowed dryly. Could that be 《Arcane Bullet》?

“Ah?”

It seemed that even Browless and the other NPCs couldn’t articulate their thoughts, perhaps running a similar algorithm in their minds.

To shoot a 《Arcane Bullet》 bullet at such a trivial event?!

“Kyle!”

“Yes?”

“That, that right now… is it?”

“Yes? That?”

“You didn’t… shoot it, did you?”

Unable to mention the word “Arcane Bullet”, Leeha could only ask obliquely. Kyle’s face brightened with a knowing smile.

“No, I didn’t.”

“Then?”

“It’s not a Arcane Bullet, but, they say, it could have that kind of power.”

“That kind of power? Using an ordinary bullet, without skills or magic, it can do that?”

“Yes.”

Leeha felt a chill run down his back as he listened to Kyle’s words.

At least, Kyle’s shot wasn’t a Arcane Bullet. Because of that, Leeha was certain.

The reason why every shooter is captivated by Arcane Bullet’s gun.

The power of Zamiel that could mesmerize all shooters.

‘And Kyle… was continuously exposed to such power.’

Kyle was someone who couldn’t even speak properly until yesterday.

‘But that was a brain issue. It was damage restricting outward expression. Kaztor’s curse rendered Kyle speechless―’

Zamiel isn’t a being that communicates externally, is it?

What if Kyle had been in continuous communication with Zamiel?

‘From when he was a fetus, perhaps?’

Leeha stared at Kyle with shocked eyes.

Kyle calmly pulled back the bolt of his bolt-action rifle and reloaded a single bullet.

“It seemed like the match was already decided with two wins… what about 『Accuracy』? Could Senior Leeha handle it?”

The face of the sickly pretty boy had completely disappeared.

Standing there was a shooter who seemed to embody all the strength of the Three Musketeers.

* * *

“Who said the match was over! There’s still 『Accuracy』 left!”

“… There’s no point in behaving disgracefully, Luger. We’ve lost.”

『Pierce』, 『Rapidfire』, 『Accuracy』. The match consisted of just three rounds.

With Kyle having won two out of the three, even if Luger or Kidd won the remaining 『Accuracy』, they couldn’t reach the victory condition initially decided by Leeha.

“What? You fool! Are you scared after losing once? Running away like this—… Cough, damn it!”

Luger turned his back after pushing Kidd.

At that moment, he realized Kidd wasn’t retreating out of fear.

“Kyle, it’s your victory. The third ticket to Laputa is yours.”

Kidd’s eyes blazed as if sparks might fly out at any moment.

Kidd glanced at Leeha briefly while looking at Kyle. It wasn’t a provocative look.

Kidd was concerned about Leeha.

―Fighting here won’t end well.

―Do you think I will lose?

―Can you break through five barriers with a single bullet? If your 〈Curve Shot〉 is that well-mastered and you can control mana flow that quickly, then it might be worth attempting.

The simplest way to hit five targets with one bullet was, of course, the 〈Curve Shot〉.

‘It was mentioned in the skill description for Curve Shot. It can bend enough to reach out of the labyrinth from the center. But that’s…’

It required constant sensing and controlling of mana flow. If the user was at Ram Hwajung’s level, it might be possible.

For Leeha, this task was still immensely challenging.

More importantly, unlike ordinary magic, a ‘bullet’ had to be physically controlled.

‘Especially a bullet with an initial velocity of 830 meters per second.’

Kyle managed to do it.

No, to be precise, it wasn’t Kyle who did it.

‘It was Zamiel who controlled it. Kyle didn’t even use 〈Curve Shot〉.’

Zamiel spoke as if entrusting everything to himself.

Leeha thought of Francis, who was friends but could not separate from Zamiel despite his hate, and Max, who considered Zamiel a mortal enemy but used his power nonetheless.

Their attitudes towards Zamiel were starkly different.

While friendly, even Francis wanted to escape Zamiel’s suffering, curse, and shackles.

At least the two of them, 《Arcane Snipers》, had something in common.

‘But Kyle… Maybe…’

A young man who had never properly expressed himself since birth.

Why did Elizabeth treat the 20-year-old young man like a baby?

What influence did Zamiel have on Kyle, who had always been locked within his inner world?

‘And what kind of existence was Zamiel intended to be for Kyle? How was he set up?’

Leeha’s mind was clouded with confusion.

Kyle looked at Leeha quietly, reflecting his complex thoughts.

“What are you going to do, senior?”

“Ahem! Wow, impressive. You’re amazing, Kyle. Honestly, I’d love to compete in 『Accuracy』 here, but… unfortunately, we don’t have much time. Since the match is decided, we should get going today, right? Ulrek?”

“Hmm?”

“See, even Ulrek says we should go. Here! The third ticket to Laputa is yours, Kyle.”

Even though Ulrek hadn’t said a word, Leeha hurriedly started taking action.

By adding NPC Kyle’s name through the system, the third Laputa ticket owner was established.

No player would be able to claim the Hall of Fame achievement for Laputa.

With the situation rapidly resolving, the Three Musketeers of the previous generation exchanged glances.

“Hmm… Well done, both of you.”

Browless looked more amazed at Kyle than angry at Kidd or Luger’s skills.

“Wow, our son is amazing.”

“Didn’t I do well, mother?”

“W-wonderful… Kyle.”

Elizabeth and Brown were also flustered by their son’s impeccable skills.

The present generation of Three Musketeers fully understood their mixed feelings of astonishment and bewilderment.

“Alright, everyone! Let’s get going! I’ll add the names right now!”

Leeha swiftly changed the atmosphere and took the lead, adding the names of the party members.

“I’m excited!”

“Finally… Laputa.”

Fernand and Alexander responded to Leeha, but the overall mood remained unchanged.

From beside Ulrek, a dinosaur looked on at the scene.
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Players ventured outside Saur Land without hesitation.

Their steps were light, partly due to their anticipation of heading to Laputa, but mostly because they had secured permanent entry rights to Saur Land.

During the time they spent for Kyle’s recovery, the players did not just loaf around their lodgings.

They were all busy increasing their intimacy levels with the NPCs and, given the special circumstances, shared most of their information.

Thanks to this, they had reached the highest intimacy level in just three days.

Outside of Saur Land’s barrier, only two dinosaurs, Ulrek and Ji-em, ventured out.

Leeha thought it showed their confidence—being able to handle any emergency with just the two of them.

‘Well, their physical defense would be similar to Toon’s, and they could also use magic, so it’s understandable.’

While thinking, Leeha asked,

‘Black, how do you feel? Do you sense anything from that gun?’

– Hahaha… interesting stuff, contractor.

‘What?’

“Chaos, destruction… and the presence of oblivion.”

‘Don’t talk like an edgy teenage! Is there someone named Zamiel in that gun, do you know?’

Leeha mumbled quietly while holding the Black Bass.

Black Bass simply laughed, and with many prying eyes around, further conversation was not possible.

“Ulrek, how far do we go?”

“Hmm, you haven’t seen it?”

“What?”

“A big, red House-house. It’s what we use to get to Laputa.”


“Oh! Red!? That sounds kind of grotesque.”

Fernand shivered at the thought of the House-house. Imagining its body like a balloon, with a clear texture of its outer skin and folds, and its tentacles spinning like a rotor for propulsion—then blown up to a massive size and colored bright red?

“We call it the Red Zeppelin. We named it after an airship relic from Laputa.”

“A Zeppelin airship! Come to think of it, stretching House-house’ body might give that impression.”

“Huh? You know of it?”

Ulrek’s steps halted momentarily. Fernand quickly waved his hands.

Because there was no way to explain how a strategic airship used by the German army during World War I bore resemblance to Laputa’s relics.

Leeha also felt something strange in Ulrek’s words and tilted his head with a question.

“Um, the name is Red Zeppelin?”

“That’s right, Red Zeppelin.”

“Hmm… why…”

Why name it like the rock band? Leeha couldn’t bring himself to ask this and struggled with the thoughts silently, causing laughter beside him.

“Pffft.”

If it had been Kidd laughing, Leeha would have scolded him. If it were Luger, he would have said not to ridicule. But the laughter now belonged to a completely different entity.

Leeha looked at him.

“…Ji-em?”

Ji-em, a researcher from Saur Land bound for Laputa, stood next to Ulrek.

The dinosaur was rubbing its eyes with its hand.

“Cough, cough. Sorry. Something got into my nose.”

Something got into his nose?


He was clearly wiping away tears from holding back laughter.

It was possible to laugh. Many Saur Land dinosaurs could laugh.

But what did this laughter signify?

‘…He laughed at Red Zeppelin? That cold Middle Earth sense of humor—did he understand that?’

Wouldn’t he have to know the name of a real rock band?

And to laugh, he would need to know the meanings behind the subtly altered spellings of the two ‘Red Zeppelins’?

As Leeha stared intently, Ji-em quickly retreated behind Ulrek.

Leeha couldn’t ask any more questions to the dinosaur sticking close to the third prince of Saur Land.

“Um, Ulrek! How much further?”

“Two hours.”

“If you returned to your original size, it would only take twenty minutes.”

Hearing Ulrek’s reply, Alexander muttered. Ulrek turned to him briefly.

“The Red Zeppelin is a classified entity within Saur Land. The original creature that inspired all House-house is kept a distance from ordinary citizens.”

“I see. But what about any monsters—”

“Do you think there would be any?”

“Indeed.”

Alexander appreciated their perfectionist tendencies immensely.

They were a race so confident in their “information” that they didn’t even need Fernand’s guidance. The Red Zeppelin had never been attacked before, and it never would be.

As they traveled, Leeha’s party persistently asked questions.

For the users who were soon going to Laputa, every word from Ulrek, who had been there before, could become a valuable hint.


However, Ulrek did not provide detailed answers.

He kept repeating that they would understand once they got there and that he couldn’t say more at this moment.

Around two hours later, when the sun was setting, they finally reached the Red Zeppelin.

“Wow…!”

“Is that it? It looks just like a real Zeppelin airship!”

Leeha and Fernand marveled in pure admiration.

The terrain, which had been densely forested, transformed into a vast plain. There stood the massive, bright red House-house!

As Fernand had predicted, a grotesque, large, airship-shaped creature rose and fell there.

“With such a form, we can’t expect much agility.”

“True. However, it has the ability to identify Laputa’s location and fly there automatically.”

“Is it like mana tracking?”

“No, it’s different. Unlike the other HausHauses we created, this particular entity has a unique ability that operates solely on its own.”

Like Bailephus had said, it was clear that agile maneuvers couldn’t be expected from its appearance.

While the older generation of the Three Musketeers looked at the new creature with childlike curiosity, the current generation bore somewhat anxious expressions.

“Luger, do you know about this?”

“Yeah. Damn… it really makes me think of the Hindenburg disaster. I knew from the moment they called it a Zeppelin airship.”

The Hindenburg disaster was well-known among Germans and Americans, given the airship’s catastrophic journey from Germany to the US.

And it was the same for Leeha.

“It won’t just explode and catch fire in midair, right? Since teleportation isn’t possible here, if that happens—”

“Hmm…”

“Maybe we should’ve been more favorable to Alexander.”

The present generation of the Three Musketeers swallowed nervously as they looked towards Bailephus. Only a dragon could handle such an emergency.

As the party was observing the Red Zeppelin, Ulrek approached them.

“Everyone, go to the tentacles of the Red Zeppelin.”

“Oh… Do we wrap them around our waists?”

“If you’re eligible to go to Laputa, she will grasp you on her own.”

“She… I understand.”

Departure was truly imminent now.

One by one, the party members approached the extended tentacles of the Red Zeppelin.

Since the airship’s body was still touching the ground, the tentacles were stretched out in various directions.

As they neared, the tentacles naturally moved and wrapped around them.

“Yikes, this feeling is so weird, honey.”

“Yeah, I feel the same way, darling. Are you okay, Kyle?”

“I think it’s fun.”

This strange sensation was tough even for NPCs to adapt to.

To maintain balance and avoid tipping the airship, Luger, Kidd, and Leeha moved in the opposite direction of the NPCs.

“U-Ulrek! We’re ready!”

“Alright. Let’s depart.”

Shrrrrrr…

At Ulrek’s words, the tentacles holding the party began to rise into the air. Leeha was thankful that the flight mechanism wasn’t exactly like a genuine Zeppelin airship.

Bzzzzzzz…

“Well, at least there won’t be an explosion disaster.”

“A helicopter crash wouldn’t just result in minor injuries either.”

“For crying out loud, at this rate, it’s not just a helicopter crash, it’s more like a passenger plane crash. We’d all be annihilated.”

Brrrrrrrr…

* * *

As Leeha, Luger, and Kidd shared their impressions, the Red Zeppelin finally ascended into the sky.

The increasingly loud rotor noises drowned out all other sounds around them.

Even though the sun had set, leaving only the moonlight to illuminate Middle Earth, the sight of the bright red airship would stand out anywhere.

“Let’s go, let’s go, to Laputa now!”

“I should just close my eyes.”

“Hehe, Ulrek-nim! Is there any chance of an accident?”

Kidd, forcing his eyes shut, was visibly excited as Luger shook him awake. Leeha watched the scene with a smirk and then turned to Ulrek.

“Are you worried about something like that?”

“No! Just in case! There are many birds over there.”

“Birds?”

Ulrek tilted his head in confusion. Leeha nodded and pointed in a direction.

Weren’t one of the main causes of frequent airplane accidents birds getting sucked into the engine?

Even though the Red Zeppelin was not even an engine type, Leeha felt a needless worry akin to the Hindenburg incident.

“Yes! Over there, many birds are flying around. Or, since it’s night, those might not be birds…”

Could Ulrek not see them?

If that’s the case, what were the flock of flying creatures visible to Leeha through the “Distorted Vision”?

“… Huh?”

Leeha felt the tentacles of the Red Zeppelin wrapping around his spine.

Screech… Screech…

At the same time the alarm rang in his head, something flew from a distance. Their magic, mixed in the darkness, was clearly visible to Leeha’s eyes. Mostly composed of red, blood-based magic, there was one distinct spell. A mass of mana formed from the darkest shade. How many days had passed since they entered Saur Land?

Leeha shouted loudly, hoping his cries would not be drowned by the noise.

“Vampires!!!”

There was no way Chiyou and Kaztor would just sit and wait.

“Absolute Barrier!”

Bailephus’s spell casting was the quickest.

* * *

Boom─, boom─!

Countless spells collided with the barrier. Bailephus’s shield, cast with his full power, was already showing cracks.

—Haha, the slaves of blood are coming again.—

“Damn, although it’s a chance to boost my charge rate—”

Leeha struggled from the tentacles, managing to regain his stance. He shot immediately.

Bang────…!

Leeha saw a bat, hidden in the darkness, plummet down.

“—This timing is just too bad, Kidd, Luger!”

Leeha pulled the bolt and called his companions. But where were they now?

“Ugh, the movements—movements are restricted.”

“Damn it, can’t use Acht-Acht in the air like this!”

They had already been floating in the air, attached to the Red Zeppelin, for about 15 minutes. The fast-moving House-house had already made significant distance from the ground.

“Damn it, shoot anyway! Even if it’s not a skill, use regular attacks! The major’s side too—”

────, ────, ────!

As quickly as Leeha responded, there were others firing back.

Kasdor and the trembling Three Musketeers of the previous generation immediately drew their guns and fired.

“Ugh, can’t see clearly—no choice. Ha Leeha, distance, direction!”

Luger aimed the cobalt-blue python awkwardly. Even with enhanced vision skills, detecting the bats camouflaged by the darkness was tough.

Therefore, he had to resort to a method he had experienced before.

“Direct rear, azimuth 180, distance 1.3km! They’re scattering, hurry!”

“Damn! Time-delayed Shell!”

Leaving the role of the ‘eyes’ solely to Leeha.

It followed the same logic of actual artillery, where the observers and gunners are distinct, and a familiar experience replayed itself once more.
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*Kwooooosh—!*

“Great! Kidd! Shine the light on those bats with that flame—”

─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─……

“Your instructions are too slow. I’ll handle it myself.”

As a result, there was no issue with the Three Musketeers’ coordinated play.

In the fleeting moment when the explosion’s flames illuminated the bats, Kidd struck down exactly six more of them.

The unfortunate part was that only two of them actually died!

“Bailephus, can you estimate the number of enemies? From what I can roughly see—”

“It’s an enormous number. Has Chiyou managed to exert the full power of Bathory?”

“Damn it, yes. No matter how low we estimate it to be…”

The frantically fluttering bats were difficult to clearly ascertain.

However, combining Bailephus’s sense of the mana flow with Fernand’s and Leeha’s observations, the conclusion converged on one number.

‘About a thousand…’

Could they handle a thousand bats? Even using multiple warheads would only create a temporary firewall.

Leeha turned his head.

“Sir Ulrek!”

There was only one way to overcome this situation.

Utilizing the heir of Toon’s race, the third prince of Saur Land, and the owner of the Red Zeppelin. However, contrary to Leeha’s expectations, Ulrek’s expression darkened as well.

“Their approaching speed surpasses the Red Zeppelin’s flying speed.”

“What?”


“Unlike the other house-houses, this one cannot be recreated, and I must protect it.”

“Then, that means—”

“If we wish to reach ‘Laputa’ safely, we have no choice but to eliminate them.”

Mana particles gathered around Ulrek’s body.

The users’ eyes focused on Ulrek, expecting an attack spell. But the bright red mana emanating from Ulrek’s body only served to make the Red Zeppelin’s red color even more vivid.

As he said, Ulrek could only defend.

“Ji-em! What about the Ji-em on your side!? We can’t handle them all on our own! There are too many—”

“I’m sorry, but I can’t do things like Sir Ulrek! I’m a researcher! I can increase the size, but if we revert to the original state from this one—let alone transforming both Ulrek and me, it’s impossible due to weight issues!”

Transforming into dinosaurs approximately 40 meters tall? The Red Zeppelin would lose balance and crash instantaneously.

Therefore, transforming both Ulrek and the Ji-em into dinosaurs was also impossible due to the weight problem.

From the beginning, there was only one answer.

“Alexander, Bailephus.”

“… I’ll try to intercept them as much as possible, but remember that there are an overwhelming number of enemies.”

“I understand.”

Sending out the only aerial combat force they had left was the only solution.

However, the expressions of Leeha and the others didn’t brighten up. Just as Alexander had emphasized again, the sheer number of enemies was daunting.

Moreover, what about the distribution of enemies lurking in the darkness?

────────────────!

『Let’s go, my partner!』

“It’s time to deliver justice.”


Bailephus and Alexander, beaming with light, flew towards the darkness.

‘Still…’

The vampires would eventually reach this place.

Leeha prioritized tasks. If they couldn’t fully intercept the enemies at the moment?

“Kyle! We must protect Kyle first! Senior Elizabeth, senior Brown!”

“Don’t worry! I won’t let that damn Dark Elf take our son again!”

“Headmaster Browless, I’m counting on you!”

“With the three of us here, do you think we’ll go down easily? Be careful yourself, Leeha.”

On the left side of the Red Zeppelin were Kyle, Elizabeth, Brown, Browless, and the Ji-em.

On the right side were Leeha, Kidd, Luger, Fernand, and Ulrek.

Since Ulrek and the Ji-em couldn’t participate in combat and Fernand wasn’t suited for long-range battle, four people on the left and three on the right had to fend off everything.

“Luger, Kidd.”

“We’re busy as hell, why call—”

“Use everything you’ve got. If you hold back, we’ll all die. 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉.”

Leeha stimulated both Luger and Kidd, creating a small-scale fire net. Five vampires that were flying fell to the ground.

“Hmph, if I hadn’t held back, you guys would’ve been devastated! Even in this situation, what I can still do is—”

Boom!

“—the power of a war mercenary!”

Various kinds of explosive rounds came out of Luger’s bag. From timed fuses and delayed fuses to high-explosive ammunition, all types of rounds that could cause explosions created a light brighter than the stars in the night sky.

Kidd alternated between firing his Crimson Geckos and crossing his arms momentarily. Annoyed by this unexpected leisure, Leeha snapped.


“What are you doing, Kidd?! If you stop, our firepower drops significantly!”

Already short on people compared to the four on the left! However, Kidd had a bigger plan in mind than Leeha’s annoyance.

“This place… is uncomfortable for me to move.”

“What are you going to do if it’s uncomfortable? Because of the tentacles, you can’t move—huh? What the, what are you doing!?”

Kidd fiddled with the tentacle wrapped around his waist. To anyone watching, it looked like he was disengaging a safety.

“Fortunately, the main body of this thing isn’t filled with hydrogen, right?”

“You’re going to run around on the main body… from the top?”

He intended to untangle the tentacle, grab it, and climb onto the main body of the Red Zeppelin to shoot.

Leeha was utterly taken aback.

Luger complained, shouting, “Just shoot already!” but it wasn’t even heard.

“You know that 『Rapidfire』 isn’t done with your hands.”

“With your feet… damn it, fine. Then handle the top. After all, someone has to cover that area.”

Kidd grabbed the tentacle and climbed up.

It hadn’t been a few seconds since he disappeared from sight when a rapid popping noise echoed from the top deck of the Red Zeppelin.

‘Damn… that’s an incredible person.’

If he fell from there, it would mean instant death.

Teleportation was impossible, and users without flight skills would die without exception.

Despite that, he moved so boldly.

Leeha was newly impressed by his rival.

“Alright! Now Kidd will block the attacks from above!”

He shouted to encourage the users and NPCs, but the situation didn’t improve. In fact, the distance between them and the vampires had now reduced to 500 meters.

Alexander and Bailephus were still intercepting them with light, but a vampire wasn’t an ordinary monster.

The group of vampires being intercepted slowed their flight speed or made sudden turns to trap Alexander and Bailephus.

Even if they died, they aimed to delay the next attack as much as possible for the entire group!

‘I thought they weren’t ordinary monsters, but still—no, and more importantly…’

Could they move like that with just the vampires?

Such coordinated actions, as if being directed from a command and control center, weren’t natural.

‘Chiyou.’

The queen of the vampires was somewhere on this battlefield.

Within the bat swarm that still appeared to number a thousand, with no apparent change in their numbers, Leeha had to find her.

But Leeha had no time to spare.

“Leeha! Leeha!”

“Huh, what?! What’s wrong?”

Luger’s face was half-lit by the explosion. He was pointing at a spot even amidst the chaos.

Below the flames, the swarm of bats was flying.

“Below! There’s a group moving below as well! These bastards plan to attack us and then go for the underbelly of the Red Zeppelin!”

“Damn it!”

Even though they were already dealing with enemies from the front and both flanks, not to mention from above which even required Kidd’s intervention, now they had to worry about below as well?

‘No, actually, below might be the most troublesome!’

If the split bat swarm attacked the users hanging from the tentacles and squeezed through them?

If they used magic while maneuvering evasively from below the Red Zeppelin? Either way, none of the current or previous generation of the Three Musketeers could shoot recklessly.

Missing or even hitting the bats might cause direct damage to the Red Zeppelin.

“We have to block them! Starting from below! Stop the ones coming from below first! 〈Cluster Missile〉!”

“I know that!”

Leeha and Luger fired at the same time. As they got closer, the shapes of the bats became clearer, at least to Leeha.

Luger, who had been exposed to the continuous light of explosions, didn’t have the time to adapt his eyes back to darkness.

The Cannoneer, who still couldn’t see where the enemies were approaching, openly displayed his frustration.

“Damned bat bastards! 〈Acht-Acht〉!”

Luger finally deployed a skill with extreme recoil.

Using such a heavy skill with just a single tentacle wrapped around his waist was a risky decision, but he had no choice.

“Kidd is doing it, so I can’t just sit and do nothing!”

Lagging behind 『Rapidfire』 who was running across the deck of the Red Zeppelin was worse than death.

“Luger! If you do something unnecessarily dangerous and the attack delay gets longer, it’s a bigger loss! Carefully, make the explosion―”

“Ha!”

Leeha’s words were ignored from the start.

“It’s my first time using this too, but… I’ll show you what real penetration is, Ha Leeha.”

At least Luger seemed to be following Leeha’s commands properly.

Do not let the bats approach the Red Zeppelin.

By any means necessary.

“Kekeke… I gained about half when we captured the Lich Dragon. I wondered where I could get the other half. Little did I know, it could only be from a 『Pierce』 stronger than mine.”

“What? What are you―”

“I know it’s absurd, but enjoy your absurdity too. 〈Railgun(磁界射出砲)〉.”

The cobalt-blue python that was enveloped by a light blue Acht-Acht began to deepen in color.

Bzzzzzzzz─────….!

The barrel of the gun became longer.

However, it narrowed and took on a sleeker shape.

Leeha couldn’t properly understand what Luger was saying. The visual stimuli were stronger than the words.

‘I’ve seen that somewhere before―That’s not the Acht-Acht.’

Anti-aircraft guns were at least meant for human use.

What Luger was holding was not a barrel that a human could normally handle.

“Naval gun…? Wait a minute! Back then! You were dazed not because you were confused―a skill window, it was because a skill acquisition window popped up!”

Luger laughed as if agreeing with Leeha’s words.

A cannon as long as those used in World War II protruded from below the Red Zeppelin.

Only then did Leeha understand Luger’s words.

The reason why he was standing blankly after his 『Pierce』 duel with Kyle ended.

It was not because he had lost focus. His focus was in perfect alignment.

‘That too―that cobalt-blue python…?!’

He was looking at a new skill acquisition window.

Hearing Leeha’s exclamation, Luger laughed.

“Yeah. The snake who hates losing more than dying told me. But this isn’t a naval gun. Keke, the sniper who boasted all the time can’t seem to know about technology unknown to the Korean military.”

Luger implied that it was decidedly different from the crude naval gun, a fact that could easily be inferred from the name of Luger’s skill.

“What, what’s all the fuss ―”

“Do you know what a gun that uses electromagnetic fields to shoot bullets is called?”

Leeha saw that expression on Luger’s face after a long time.

An arrogant face filled with confidence.

It was the very expression Luger had when he first saw Leeha.

Luger must have also seen that expression on Leeha after a long time.

A face that screamed, “It’s impossible, can an attack like this be real?”

It was the very expression Leeha had when he first saw Luger.

Both of their emotions intersected.

Luger laughed, as if his lungs would burst, and Leeha shouted the name of Luger’s weapon from reality.

“You madman! Railgun! Who uses such a thing! It’s totally overpowered―”

Bwoooooo────────k!

“Arghhhhh―!”

『Roooaaarr….!』

Luger and the Red Zeppelin roared simultaneously.

The recoil transmitted through Luger’s body to its tentacles made the entire body of the Red Zeppelin stagger in the air.

“Kuh…!?”

Kidd, who was rampaging on the upper deck of the Red Zeppelin, couldn’t help but lose his balance for a moment.

“What’s going on!”

Kidd shouted downwards.

―Luger fired! This is completely insane―
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Leeha’s voice vaguely echoed, but Kidd couldn’t clearly understand it.

Did he shoot? What?

Kidd tilted his head quizzically and looked towards the rear where the swarm of vampires was gathered.

“Holy…… Shit.”

Seeing the situation, Kidd understood why Leeha had abruptly stopped speaking, astonished.

“What exactly did you shoot?”

Kidd also grasped why within Saur Land, Luger had been jumping up and down in excitement.

Kyle was undoubtedly an exceptional shooter. He understood too that there were countless undisclosed secrets about the firearms Kyle used.

Yet, didn’t Luger boast that he could surpass Kyle?

“Was it because of…… this?”

Beneath the moonlight, the vampire bat swarm appeared dark.

A massive hole had pierced through their center.

In stark contrast to the polluted black surroundings, only the pure and clear night sky remained in that spot.

Something had passed through and annihilated all the bats in its vicinity.

Kidd was astonished by Luger’s new skill.

“A piercing shot……?”

However, the shock felt by those who experienced it firsthand was exponentially, if not dozens of times stronger than Kidd’s.

* * *

“Don’t you hear something?”

『Caution! 〈Protect from Normal Missiles〉!』


Before Alexander could react to the explosive sound, Bailephus had already started evasive maneuvers.

───────────────!

Though they even fortified the shield to prepare for physical defense, Bailephus overlooked one fact.

“Kaah!? The, the wind―”

『Hold on tight, Alexander!』

Hooowwwwwwwllll─────……!

It was an immensely powerful wind.

When an overwhelmingly fast object tore through the atmosphere, the ensuing shockwave was extraordinarily tremendous.

“Is there a Wind Master around?”

Alexander, even while questioning himself, somewhat sensed that it wasn’t the power of a Wind Master.

It was a shockwave with fatal destructive power, akin to compressed air being shot out.

Most importantly, his eyes took in the scene after the shockwave dissipated.

A ‘massive hole’ torn right in the middle of the clustered bats.

What if this attack had been aimed at him?

‘I couldn’t say it would be impossible to block.’

However, if caught unaware? Alexander conceded that assuring perfect defense would be difficult.

To that extent, Alexander was impressed by his allies’ attack.

“As expected of Saur Land. They said they couldn’t attack, yet their skill is―”

『No, it’s not the work of the Dinosaur Race.』

“What?”


Unlike Alexander, Bailephus already knew.

『…… That guy Luger……』

Who had carried out the attack just now.

Hearing Bailephus’ murmuring, Alexander’s eyes widened. His expression had even forgotten its usual composure.

“Luger? Impossible! No attack effects were visible, if it was his attack there should have been an explosion!?”

An assumption that there would be no skill without visible effects.

It was natural for a user to think this way.

And Alexander wasn’t wrong. Luger’s skills did indeed have graphic effects.

『That’s not it, Alexander, partner. The gap ‘there’ right now…… is merely the aftermath of his attack.』

The only problem was that the ‘massive hole’ Alexander discovered belatedly was created unrelated to any skill.

Listening to Bailephus’ dry voice, Alexander swallowed.

“……You’re saying that sound was a sonic boom? No, even if it was a sonic boom……”

The first sound Alexander heard was the vibration of the force emitting.

But could a mere shockwave possess enough destructive power to create a hole among the densely gathered bats?

How big a bullet had to have been shot? Was it the size of a house-sized rock?

‘Impossible. That would mean it just passed by with tremendous speed and destructive power.’

Alexander chuckled. He was no longer bewildered.

“Lee Jiwon, Igor, and Pei Wu were not the problem.”

『Hmm?』

Alexander grabbed his spear.


Luger’s attack made even an Ancient Dragon’s voice tremble.

Even the vampires, who had been restricting them without hesitation, were quite flustered and broke their flying formations.

Alexander had to admit that it was due to the “power of another”.

So, what was it that he had to do?

Would he merely stand by and watch the vampires, who had been challenging even when acting alongside Bailephus, become chaotic due to the “power of another”?

Alexander was not the person to do that.

“It was the Three Musketeers I had to worry about. Partner… execute it.”

What he had to do: to show stronger power.

『Alexander, you are the apex of humanity as I acknowledge… but remember, the recoil won’t be easy to handle―』

“That’s why this moment is necessary, partner.”

Hearing Alexander’s determination, Bailephus did not stop him anymore.

“To know everything about you, and for you to know everything about me.”

Light erupted from the bodies of Alexander and Bailephus, who were directly taking on the vampires.

Alexander’s second job was Dragon Knight.

A job that partners with a dragon to maintain and protect goodness along with it.

However, Alexander also knew well that becoming a dragon’s partner did not necessarily mean one had to be a Dragon Knight.

Considering mere mounting for attacks or possible coordination with a dragon, even Leeha or Ram Hwajung could achieve such things.

It was inconceivable that Alexander wasn’t aware of this.

So, what was the uniqueness that only a Dragon Knight held?

What was the particularity that only the first Dragon Knight and the first dragon partner possessed?

Alexander asked, and Bahamut provided the answer.

With the words, ‘The time has come’, the Leader of the Metal Dragons bestowed a skill.

“This is the new form for us to step―up to the next level.”

It was a skill that could only be used when the bond formed beyond the friendship accumulated through playing as comrades was fulfilled, a skill that only a true Dragon Knight and not just a dragon’s partner could use.

“〈Mash―up〉.”

────────────……!!!!

The boundary of light split into two collapsed.

The amalgamated mass of light soon took a form that was neither an Ancient Dragon nor a human.

* * *

After informing Kidd about Luger’s attack, Leeha immediately inquired of Luger.

“What’s with the railgun! Since when? Since when did you start using something like that?”

“Kah-hah-hah! Do I need to report to you on every single thing?”

Luger forced a laugh but didn’t turn his head toward Leeha.

Unlike his tone which pretended disinterest and nonchalance, he was one of the most startled individuals regarding the skill.

“Anyway, you’re definitely a crazy human! Why didn’t you use it during the Lich Dragon fight? The casting time seems quite long, was that the reason?”

“Keke, I could beat a Lich Dragon without this!”

Luger was lying.

He had only been able to use this skill for a few hours.

‘Damn it… Requires more than 3,000 mana, and uses up all mana per use if mana is 3,000 or more? The casting time isn’t even short―’

A skill that consumes all MP regardless of having 3,001 or 5,000 mana per use.

A skill that should be used only at the moment of a decisive strike, where a single shot must hit and eliminate the enemy.

Yet the casting time was long and aiming was difficult?

‘If the vampires hadn’t been clustered… I wouldn’t have hit it.’

It was merely a distance of 500 meters, yet Luger lacked confidence.

How would he handle the overwhelming recoil powerful enough to shake the entire mass of the Red Zeppelin?

“Hehe… that’s why it’s good. High risk, high return.”

“What?”

“No! Just do your job! I’m fighting like this, and Kidd is rampaging too. You should show something as well― hmm?!”

“What?”

─────────────…….

Just as Luger was preparing to mess with Leeha after finally finding a reason, a massive explosion of light occurred near the vampire swarm.

The light disappeared in an instant.

However, it didn’t fade away by spreading out but rather converged into a single point, forming a new shape, creating a bizarre kind of alienation.

When Alexander fully activated his new skill, not only were Leeha and the humans surprised, but even Ulrek and Ji-em had to show astonished expressions.

What stood there was not a human.

Nor was it a dragon.

“Is that…?”

“What is it…?”

If you enlarged Lizardia twenty times, would it look like that?

However, the soft golden glow emanating from his skin and the perfect golden ratio stretching from his horns to his wings and fingertips made any comparison to the Lizardia race impossible.

The users felt a sense of familiarity with that form.

It wasn’t simply because they suspected he was Bailephus.

It wasn’t just because he held a spear that looked about twenty times larger than what Alexander used to wield.

― Could it be Bailephus?

―… It looks that way even to Kidd? Just look at those perfect proportions, like a statue…

A being that wasn’t in dragon form nor human form.

“Is this Da Vinci’s ‘Vitruvian Man’? Damn it, then now it’s neither a dragon nor a human? No, it’s a fusion of human and dragon― Damn, what am I even saying!”

Though his words were garbled, Luger’s hunter instincts picked it up.

If you drew wings according to Da Vinci’s ‘Vitruvian Man’ proportions in the golden ratio, it would look similar to that being.

As Leeha listened to his words, a term flashed through his mind.

A being that combined a dragon and a human.

“… Fusion?”

“What?”

“Damn it. Fusion! Alexander and Bailephus have fused!”

Supporting Leeha and Luger’s joint speculation was an NPC. And not just any NPC, but one of a different league, nodding in admiration.

“So it is. It’s a bit different from the dragon knowledge we know.”

“Lord Ulrek… do you think so too?”

“This isn’t a phenomenon registered in Saur Land’s information records. It means that humans from the outside have achieved something even our ancestors hadn’t seen.”

“So, later― please help convince the King! I’m telling you, it won’t hurt to step out of Saur Land!”

When Ulrek showed genuine emotion, Leeha tried making a “side sales pitch”, but it wasn’t the right time.

“This isn’t the time for that, Ha Leeha! Although Alexander is restraining the majority, many of them are still approaching!”

Listening to Luger’s reprimand, Leeha cocked the bolt of the Black Bass.

There was a reason he could exchange even a single line of honest, half-joking conversation with Ulrek.

“Luger, Alexander… they are amazing humans.”

“What?”

“They may have acted instinctively, but that makes it even scarier.”

This was a game, but it wasn’t a game. If the synchronization rate was maximized, all senses could be felt exactly like in reality.

‘So, it’s only natural to be afraid.’

Therefore, it was natural for defensive instincts to come out.

In terms of slaughtering and halting the advance of the vampire bat swarm, the continuous combination of skills by Luger and Alexander was very effective and deadly.

So, how would the ‘users’ within the vampire bat swarm perceive it?

When their strategic formation fell into chaos, Leeha saw a group where the defensive line thickened the most.

From Leeha’s perspective, the bats trying to circle to the rear of the Red Zeppelin appeared to be in such a formation.

“You’re there, Chiyou? 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉”

Bababababang―!

Leeha immediately raised Black Bass and used his skill.
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As soon as the Murti-Warhead Shot was seen, the vampires began to scatter.

Just by observing their sudden tactical movement, Leeha judged that there was a high probability that their commander was among them.

“Luger, Kidd! Over there! Take out the ones retreating to the left rear first! Chiyou is there!”

“Chiyou?! Just as expected, they’re targeting Kyle right from the start!”

“Considering their― movements, it’s― obvious! They planned to distract us with all these attacks and abduct Kyle!”

────, ────, ────!

The current generation of the “Three Musketeers” began concentrating their attacks on the left flank. The previous generation of the Musketeers also heard their conversation clearly.

“So, it’s in that direction!? Sir!”

“Yes. Kaztor will certainly be with the second Bathory.”

“I won’t let them get near my son!”

Elizabeth and Brown’s gun barrels were heating up fiercely.

Each bullet, fired as if to annihilate the entire bat swarm, was sharply aimed.

Browless wore a relaxed expression throughout.

No matter how many enemies there were, once the main target was identified, there was no need to worry about the other forces.

“Kidd! Catching the enemy commander equals ending this battle, understood!?”

“Of course. All the things the director did twenty years ago… I remember them all.”

“Haha, it’s a bit embarrassing to hear that!”

The fame of the Three Musketeers, who had been active before the 2nd Human-Demon War, was known broadly, yet a whispered secret within that fame was Browless’s assassination record.

Few could thwart the infiltration of the “Rapidfire” that operated thoroughly in the shadows, which was why Minis repeatedly failed to overpower Fibiel despite its overwhelming forces—due to the commander’s absence, an absurd justification.

Six bullets were focused on a single point.


This was on a different scale from the fusillade Leeha created alone.

The concentrated bombardment on the vampires soon yielded results.

“Magic…! Director!”

“Yes.”

There were not many bats capable of using magic.

Lesser vampires could use magic in their human form but not as bats. Nevertheless, there was a significant number of spells flying from the side that had been heavily attacked.

This was further evidence of at least platoon-level vampires congregating there.

Adjusting to the movements of Kidd and Browless, the Musketeers also raised their Red Ceppelin’s tendrils to shield their faces and other vital areas.

“Son! Come here quickly!”

Elizabeth urgently called out to Kyle.

There wasn’t much room to move, and since they were bound by the tendrils like belts, avoiding the enemies’ attacks was inherently minimized.

Thus, their strategy was to sacrifice part of the Red Ceppelin to protect themselves.

However, Kyle was not moving.

“Mother, I just saw the ones casting the spells.”

He pointed at the bat swarm with calm eyes, his voice unhurried.

“Uh, uh? Well! So come here quickly, we need to—dodge. Kaztor, that darned creature, but his magic skills are—”

“There are only eighteen bats over there that can cast spells. The one farthest to the left, over there, do you see?”

Elizabeth didn’t turn to look where Kyle was pointing.

Seeing her expression, Brown shouted.

“Kyle! We need to dodge now! Acknowledging the enemy’s abilities is also part of combat!”


“Doesn’t the magic get canceled if the mana is cut off? So wouldn’t it be better to do this—”

Bang─────────…!

“—instead?”

Raising his rifle swiftly, Kyle fired, seamlessly continuing his words.

“… Insane.”

Leeha saw eighteen vampire bats plummeting from the left side.

All the spells that had been flying toward them were canceled.

Ulrek and Ji-em were unfazed.

Compared to Alexander’s magnificent feat of handling over five hundred vampires post-〈Fusion〉, Kyle’s action might seem less impactful.

However, most of the users and NPCs present wielded firearms.

Therefore, they were at a loss for words.

Even having glimpsed Kyle’s skills within Saurerland, they were now soaking in a shock incomparable to that of the past.

The 『Rapidfire』 test that shattered the five stationary targets with just a graze was nothing compared to this.

Amidst a swarm of bats that moved swiftly, it was impossible to distinguish one from another, except immediately after using magic, yet the shots hit their marks.

Eighteen targets were killed instantly by the bullets.

‘Did… Did he really hit all of those targets? And distinguished the one using magic amidst them?’

‘That damn bastard made a line piercing through eighteen bats with one shot?’

‘Are we talking about a true 『Rapidfire』? A single bullet doing the work of many…’

Leeha, Luger, and Kidd didn’t look at each other.

Each of them knew the shock the others must have felt.


* * *

‘I sense something.’

『What kind of presence is it?』

Alexander swung his spear.

Even in his human form, he could freely adjust the length of the spear.

The majesty of the spear remained unchanged after being fused with Bailephus.

If Alexander’s skills based on the sun, light, and justice were amplified by Bailephus’s mana, then…

Whooosh────!

The vampire bats burst apart just from brushing against the spear imbued with light.

It was beyond the level of attack and defense, resembling a one-sided massacre of lower life forms by a superior being.

Alexander focused on the whisper-like conversation with Bailephus. Despite this, there were no issues with his seamless offense and defense.

He held all the control in his body, while Bailephus provided and analyzed all sorts of information beyond Alexander’s perception, feeding it back to him.

This was an abundance of information that transcended relying on sight, hearing, smell, and other senses.

If Bailephus’s mana detection and Leeha’s spirit detection were passively embedded into close combat, especially if the number one ranked individual demonstrated such behavior, there would be no match for him in close combat.

‘It’s the Dark Elves’ aura.’

『It’s Kaztor. Which direction?』

Alexander could sense it.

He sent a whisper to Leeha immediately.

―Kaztor’s aura was felt among the group we just attacked.

―What? Did you feel it, Alexander?

―Yes, I did. I’ll head there after cleaning up these vampires, so hold on a bit longer.

Leeha laughed bitterly while hearing Alexander’s command.

Maybe it was because he showcased a new skill? It seemed like his pride soared even higher.

‘But the sudden detection of Kaztor’s aura means―’

It means Kyle’s recent attack had an effect. There was a high possibility that one of the eighteen he hit was Kaztor.

‘There’s a chance. Even if it’s not, preventing the vampires from approaching easily is a significant achievement.’

The vampire swarms, already cautious because of Luger and Alexander, began to actively evade and spread out even more after Kyle’s attack.

Despite being only about 300 meters away, the vampires were flying left and right, making it take more time for them to reach the Red Zeppelin.

“Ha ha ha! There’s no hope, Chiyou! None at all, you pathetic vampires! Become food for my snake!”

“Shut up, Luger! If you have time to talk, you should be firing more shots!”

“You’re the loud one!”

Luger and Kidd were naturally in high spirits.

Despite facing a thousand vampires, they handled it without borrowing the strength of the Sauroland dinosaurs.

They could feel how much they had grown since they started their expedition to the New Continent’s East.

Of course, the significant contribution of outstanding NPCs like the previous generation’s Three Musketeers and the yet-to-be-fully-understood Kyle, the Arcane Sniper, had a huge impact. But it was also a fact that the players themselves had gotten stronger.

“Ugh! Ha Leeha― Ha Leeha-ssi! Some are coming down below!”

The only person not participating in the battle was Fernand.

After hearing about the vampire attack, he realized he couldn’t help and focused solely on observing the ground.

In one hand he held paper, and in the other hand, charcoal.

Even in such desperate moments, he was doing his best, like assessing the terrain the Red Zeppelin was flying over, figuring out how to proceed if they got lost, the surrounding topography, and identifying viable routes for people.

“Fernand-ssi! The enemy― try whipping them a bit!”

“Ugh, these bastards! They retreated a whip’s length and then approached again—there are quite a few of them already!”

Leeha aimed his gun in that direction but then lowered it.

Even if he didn’t hit Fernand, the dangling tendrils of the Red Zeppelin obstructed Leeha’s view.

Shooting a curved shot at each one individually would waste too much mana, so Leeha had only one option.

The tightly packed tendrils restricted movement.

If one saw each tendril as a ‘tree’, this place was no different from a forest.

“Jellypong! 〈Combat Mode: Agility〉! Save Fernand and kill those vampires!”

『Myoongmyooong—!』

It was the perfect place for Jellypong’s three-dimensional movement.

Although Leeha couldn’t move, Jellypong could convert Leeha’s stats into its own and utilize them.

『Myoong! Myoongmyoong! Myooong—!』

“Screech—!”

“Szzk—”

“Graaah! What’s this!?”

In other words, Jellypong’s current attack power and health surpassed most field bosses.

The vampires, which had previously been bats, tried to transform into human form and counterattack, but Jellypong, moving quicker and swinging its tendrils, was too much for them.

Kidd covered the upper area, while Jellypong handled the lower area.

Alexander handled interceptions, and the Three Musketeers took care of defense.

In this situation, where offense and defense came from all directions, the Red Zeppelin continued its flight.

When they just entered a dense stratocumulus ahead, it was the enemies who screamed first.

“Graaah! 〈Maze Dimension〉! 〈Dark Cloud〉!”

One human appeared from the swarm of bats approaching Kyle, Elizabeth, and Brown on the left side of the Red Zeppelin.

────, ────, ────!

“Kaztor!”

“I will kill you!”

“Rotzaaaak!”

Even before Elizabeth, Brown, and Browless could call his name, bullets were already flying.

Only after the shots did their enraged roars emerge, but Kaztor was no fool.

The magic he used the moment he appeared was his unique skill, which completely distorted the surrounding space.

The bullets all got lost in the labyrinthian dimension.

Kaztor smiled from the shimmering air beyond.

His gaze was fixed solely on one person.

“Indeed. The Saur Land army. Cured what even dragons couldn’t lift… You look much better, Kyle.”

“Don’t say my son’s name with that filthy mouth!”

BOOM────────……!

Elizabeth pulled the trigger forcefully, but the shimmering air protecting Kaztor swallowed the bullet again.

“I won’t let you lay a finger on this child.”

“Browless, this is not your place.”

“What? How dare you say that—”

“Then it’s fine if I step in. I won’t let a filthy mana tendril touch my child, not even a finger, Kaztor.”

Browless angrily tried to unload his bullets, but Brown put a hand on his shoulder to stop him.

Having already revealed himself, they knew their ordinary bullets couldn’t hurt him.

“Kukuku… Brown. Don’t you realize? You can’t lay a finger on me with your pathetic bullets. Even after all this, you still—”

“The fool here is you, Kaztor. Just as you said, our Kyle lifted your curse in Saur Land. Twenty years… after twenty years, he’s now in a normal state. Did you really think Kyle wouldn’t hate you?”

Brown turned his head to look at Kyle.

Kyle met Brown’s gaze for a moment before turning back to Kaztor.

Although bats flitted around the dark elf, Kyle’s eyes didn’t waver.

“You’re right. Our bullets can’t pierce you. But.”

In time with Brown’s words, Kyle slowly raised his rifle.

“Our son… Kyle can hit you.”

The 《Arcane Bullet》 aimed at Kaztor.

Leeha couldn’t see Kyle’s expression.

Thus, while Fernand, Kidd, and Luger all had their eyes fixed there, Leeha let his thoughts drift elsewhere.

It was triggered by something that had happened just before they left Saur Land.
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What kind of gaze did Kyle have right now?

Why did Kaztor, beyond the shimmering haze, seem like he was smiling?

‘Kaztor and Brown having a conversation… How is that possible?’

A story only progressed with the presence of a user. Whether the user understood it or not, comprehended it or not, was never given any consideration.

‘To make us listen to the NPCs’ conversation? … That can’t be it.’

Middle Earth wasn’t such a kind game. So then, why now?

Leeha turned his head to look at Alexander. He was still repelling the horde of vampires.

‘Yeah, their numbers have reduced considerably. It’s hard to tell exactly, but they’ve definitely decreased.’

The number of vampires Alexander had killed up to now must have been substantial. But could they really have diminished ‘this much’?

From the moment they entered the cloud, the vampires only maintained a distance without approaching. That, too, was strange.

It wouldn’t have been any obstacle for Leeha with his “Distorted Vision”, but it certainly would limit the visibility of the other musketeers.

In the dark night, with dark-colored bats entering a cloud, it was natural that they wouldn’t be detected until they got quite close.

This place would’ve been the perfect spot for an assault.

So why didn’t they approach? What’s the reason?

“Right. Kyle can hit me. If he can shoot the 《Arcane Bullet》, then I’m nothing. You can ask directly. No matter what I do, it’s no problem to kill me. Isn’t it, Zamiel?”

“Don’t provoke Kyle, Kaztor. You lost. No matter what you do, you can’t… beat our son.”

“Heh, right. That’s why I called it a blessing. To obtain the power to move all of Earth at a young age.”

“Shut up!”

Elizabeth shouted.

A blessing? This was not a blessing. The entity controlling Kyle had just changed from Kaztor to Zamiel.


If Kyle fired all the Arcane Bullet, his existence would be obliterated; if he didn’t shoot, he would be in such extreme pain that he couldn’t sustain his life.

“Still, you’re right. I can’t beat Kyle. That’s why I never intended to beat him in the first place.”

“What?”

Kaztor shrugged.

“I don’t need to win.”

It was a fleeting moment.

So brief that it didn’t even register in Leeha’s “Distorted Vision.”

Something flew from in front of the Red Zeppelin.

It was a bat.

A bat that had just begun to transform into a human form.

By the time humans realized what it was, it was already behind Elizabeth.

“Because I just need to win.”

At that moment, Leeha knew. This was all part of a grand scheme.

Using a thousand vampires merely to herd the Red Zeppelin.

Dividing the forces to obscure his true objective. Setting up a peculiar movement to alert the presence of a commander, then planting Kaztor there.

And then, he himself, moving with the main group that pretended to target the lower half of the Red Zeppelin, accelerating forward to the cloud where he had already entered and waited.

All were just steps for this moment.

‘If it weren’t for the clouds, I would have noticed… No, it wouldn’t have mattered if there were clouds or not. Because the spell Kaztor used was “Dark Cloud.”‘

Leeha could infer the effect of “Dark Cloud.”

The problem was that even though his thinking process worked, his body didn’t move.


The result of the operation that Kaztor carried out, going as far as to be the bait himself, had just revealed itself.

Chiyou bit into Elizabeth’s nape.

* * *

“Huh?”

“What?”

No one managed to finish a sentence.

For the first reason, they couldn’t grasp the situation.

Why was Chiyou there? The Vampire Queen’s movements, exploiting the ‘gaps of consciousness’ that many users, including Fernand, had, were inherently unpredictable.

Trying to ‘react after seeing’ something that moved faster than the speed of perception was impossible.

“Bl, block—”

**New Elements and Characters:**

카즈토르 (Kaztor, he/him)

자미엘 (Zamiel, he/him)

엘리자베스 (Elizabeth, she/her)

“Chiyou―”

“Ann d―”

None of the NPCs, including Leeha, who had barely grasped the situation, could finish their sentences either.

“aaaaaaaargh―!”

The moment Chiyou’s fangs dug into Elizabeth’s neck, a scream erupted from the left side of Red Zeppelin, swallowing everything.

Chiyou, while biting into Elizabeth’s neck, rolled her eyes furiously. Was there anyone targeting her?


“Damn it! Chiyou!”

The moment she saw Leeha’s Black Bass, she pulled away from Elizabeth’s neck and shouted.

“Freeze! If anyone moves, this woman will melt away by the morning sun.”

Chiyou yelled, wiping the blood off her lips.

After silencing everyone with her initial shout, she quickly continued.

“If you want to test the influence a Vampire Queen has over vampires, if you want to see Elizabeth die, go ahead and move.”

She asserted that her words were not a threat but a certainty.

It wasn’t difficult for someone experienced in handling people like her to stop everyone on Red Zeppelin.

“Argh, aargh!”

Elizabeth, bound by Red Zeppelin’s tentacles, struggled, unable to break free.

Neither Brown nor Browless could approach her while Kyle grabbed other tentacles and moved his body.

“M… mom?”

“D-d-—Don’t come closer, Kyle!”

Elizabeth kicked at Kyle, pushing him away.

Could the pain be so intense that she had to kick away her precious son?

Kaztor chuckled. Over a hundred bullets from Browless had been fired in an instant, but none touched him.

As the gunfire ceased, Elizabeth’s struggle also ended.

She dropped her head and breathed heavily.

“So, Elizabeth? How does it feel to be reborn as a ‘vampire’?”

Chiyou covered her mouth with her hand and let out a small laugh. Elizabeth, slumped completely, turned only her head toward Chiyou.

“If you turn me… into a vampire…”

Blood trickled from Elizabeth’s lips, not a side effect of becoming a vampire but as a result of the NPCs’ anger turning to blood.

“Oh my! I suspected she wasn’t an average human. You’re the only one here who understood my actions.”

Chiyou looked genuinely surprised. But her surprise didn’t hinder her main plan.

It was like looking at a child who had answered a quiz correctly.

“Ah…! Could it be?”

Leeha was listening to their conversation.

Though Chiyou’s voice was small under the hum of Red Zeppelin’s flight, the intent was clear – what Chiyou was aiming for was evident.

Chiyou clung to the tentacle.

While the tentacles did not bind her as unqualified, it wasn’t a problem for a Vampire Queen who could already fly.

“Did you just realize it, Ha Leeha? If you had seen through my plan beforehand, you wouldn’t be human.”

Leeha trembled.

Was this part of Chiyou’s plan all along?

From the start, or maybe since the time Kaztor and Chiyou first met Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle?

What was more troubling was that Leeha thought, ‘If it’s Chiyou, it’s possible.’

Kyle had already broken Kaztor’s curse.

What were the chances that Kaztor would rush to Kyle and cast the curse again?

Would Chiyou target Kyle? Undoubtedly, she would want to have Kyle in her grasp.

Chiyou’s greed was decipherable, but the method was not, leading to the current situation.

“‘Arcane Sniper’… can only be human…”

How could Kyle, now free from the curse and capable of shooting magical bullets, be controlled?

“Hehe, that’s right. Vampires can’t be ‘Arcane Sniper.’ Right, Kaztor?”

“Yes, exactly. Just as no matter what I did, I couldn’t fuse with Zamiel.”

Turn Kyle into a vampire to control him?

Arcane Sniper can only be human.

If Kyle became a vampire, who knows what would happen? If he lost his qualification as Arcane Sniper, Chiyou wouldn’t achieve her goal.

If Zamiel’s gun were to fall to the ground, neither Chiyou nor Kaztor could pick it up here.

Arcane Sniper can only be ‘human’.

Then, to take control of Kyle, to manipulate him, what method would they use?

Kaztor had used a curse for that.

They tried to manipulate Kyle by imposing a penalty that required their presence for Kyle to shoot the Arcane Bullet, putting him in a state of abnormality to control him.

In other words, from Kaztor’s perspective, it was an attempt to grasp everything through complete subjugation.

And Chiyou?

“Now, Kyle-niim~? If you don’t want to witness the death of your beloved mother… would you come over here, please?”

What she was pursuing could be seen as an involuntary cooperative relationship. In other words…

It was a plan to take his mother hostage and threaten him.

Chiyou could understand it because she had seen the relationship between Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle and heard their conversations.

How much did Kyle, whose mind wasn’t completely sound, rely on his mother?

Who was the only person he trusted to sustain his childlike mental state?

She knew that if she could grasp that, Kyle would just become a ‘follower’ level accessory.

Finally, everyone present could understand Chiyou’s grand scheme.

Roger and Fernand couldn’t close their dropped jaws. Kidd and Browless were acting the same.

Both men’s lips had turned pale.

“Damn…”

Leeha was lifting the Black Bass, but his muzzle was shaking.

Who should he aim at, exactly?

Chiyou? Or…?

How could he overcome this situation?

By shooting Chiyou? Or…?

What was the best course of action?

To prevent Kyle from falling into the ‘enemy’s’ hands, what immediate action was required?

Knowing that point, Leeha couldn’t act.

“Liza…”

Fortunately, the level of the NPCs was significant.

Elizabeth and Brown had reached the same conclusion as Leeha.

“Honey… I’m sorry.”

Brown closed his eyes instead of worsening the forthcoming situation.

And Elizabeth acted swiftly.

Clink.

She pulled back the bolt and pointed the muzzle under her chin.

“No! Don’t―”

Bang─────────…!

Before Chiyou could stop her, Elizabeth pulled the trigger. The gunshot echoed for a long time.

Elizabeth had chosen suicide.

* * *

The smoke from the muzzle dispersed into the air.

“… Huh?”

“Honey? Honey?”

Brown, who had closed his eyes and lowered his head, hurriedly raised his head. Why was he hearing Elizabeth’s voice even after the gunshot had echoed?

Brown didn’t see it. But all the users and NPCs present who hadn’t closed their eyes saw it.

“Mom…”

The gunshot hadn’t come from below Elizabeth’s chin.

Smoke was rising from the muzzle of the gun held by Kyle, who was dangling by tentacles.

“Ka-Kyle… Don’t tell me, don’t tell me now—”

Elizabeth couldn’t clearly grasp the situation. The users around her were the same.

They had only one basis for their guess.

Apart from the gunshot, there had been a ‘flash of light’ and Elizabeth’s gun had completely disappeared.

“Kuhuhu… Haha! Indeed! As expected of Kyle! As expected of Zamiel!”

Kaztor laughed like a madman when he saw the scene.

Chiyou, too, exhaled in relief while trying to hide her surprised expression.

Why had Elizabeth’s gun suddenly disappeared? There was only one reason.

“Just now… I didn’t see it, but that was…”

“The ‘Arcane Bullet’! That Kyle used that precious shot to save his mother! Well, it would have been more troublesome if Elizabeth had died, so it’s a relief.”

Kaztor stopped laughing.

Chiyou quickly subdued Elizabeth.
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“Let go of me!”

“Stay still, Elizabeth. From now on, you are forbidden from any self-harming behaviors.”

She had become a ‘vampire’, and now that night had fallen, she couldn’t go against Chiyou.

Chiyou placed her hand on Elizabeth’s neck where her own fang marks were.

“〈Blood Oath〉.”

“Ka-haa… Honey, honey—quick!”

Even as the ‘absolute command’ was being imprinted on her, Elizabeth called out to Brown. Brown was holding a gun, but his jaw was already trembling.

Could he kill the person he loved the most with his own hands?

Seeing Brown’s state, Elizabeth called out to Browless.

“Les, please! Shoot me! Just shoot!”

“Beth, but—I…”

Even Browless couldn’t bring himself to shoot. Naturally, Elizabeth’s gaze shifted to the three others.

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger. She looked at the current generation of the Three Musketeers and nodded.

“Hurry—”

Luger immediately raised his gun, but he too could not pull the trigger. It wasn’t merely the thought of not killing Elizabeth.

“……Everyone, lower your guns. If anyone points a gun at my mother, even if they don’t pull the trigger, I will shoot them.”

Kyle, who stood beside her, raised his gun towards the Three Musketeers.

“Kyle!”

“Son!”

Even though Elizabeth and Brown screamed, Kyle wouldn’t listen.


The frail-faced young boy no longer existed.

The future of Middle Earth, the Demon King’s Fragment, saur Land, the 〈Sacred Alliance〉, or the possibility of the third war between humans and demons—all these meant nothing to Kyle.

Only his mother, whom he thought about and relied on, remained in his mind, his eyes burning with determination.

“Everyone… I said drop your guns. Even you, liss ajussi. And you, too, ajussi Fernand, put down your whip. Restore that pudding-like thing. And stop that flying dragon-like creature. If anyone raises a weapon, I will shoot everyone here.”

When he mentioned the possibility of collective responsibility, even the users couldn’t help it anymore.

A decision had to be made now.

—

―Kidd! Can you take him down?

―He’ll shoot me first. Leeha, you—

―We still have one more trick up our sleeve. Wait… First, we need to kill Chiyou. Then we might be able to restore Elizabeth.

―What? What method—

—

The Three Musketeers were whispering among themselves.

Their resolve, which said they hadn’t given up, was evident through their actions and expressions.

The problem was that Chiyou, who read all of this.

“Ha Leehaa~? If you conjure the Terror Spirit, I will kill Elizabeth immediately. Before that spirit can knock me out, my claws will pierce Elizabeth’s heart.”

The various tactics Leeha could use were already in Chiyou’s information.

Unless he obtained a new skill or method, there wasn’t any way to surprise her.

Except for one thing—everyone here was of a different race.

Leeha shouted quickly.


“Lord Ulrek! They―”

“I know you share blood ties with Toon. And I’ve learned from that Dark Elf over there that you don’t interfere in human affairs. If you stay still, we promise not to harm you in any way.”

“Lies! That’s not true! As I said before, these people want to infiltrate inside Saur Land! If they gain the right to use Arcane Bullet—”

“Ha~Lee~ha~? We are not fools. We wouldn’t dare provoke a race far superior to us. Isn’t that right, ‘Lord Ulrek’?”

If only Chiyou were alone, her plan might’ve been thwarted.

He might have found a way by borrowing the power of Ulrek and Ji-em.

Or maybe she would’ve attacked the Red Zeppelin without knowing anything. If she had, Ulrek certainly would not have remained calm.

But she wasn’t alone here.

“I promise. Dinosaur of Saur Land, I only took interest in you because of Arcane Sniper. We won’t interfere with you at all.”

“Is that so.”

“It is. But if you are deceived by that human’s schemes and attack us…”

Kaztor moved his hand.

Spears darker than the night itself appeared beside him.

“At least, this creature you are traveling on will not remain intact.”

“I promise you this. We vampires, the nocturnal race, will pull out all the stops to bring this down.”

Chiyou reinforced Kaztor’s declaration.

Leeha continued to persuade Ulrek.

He even used his 〈Bargaining〉 skill, insisting that their words were false and should never be trusted, but Ulrek was a dinosaur.

A dinosaur from Saur Land.

“Fine. As long as you don’t touch Red Zeppelin, I won’t interfere in your affairs.”


“Lord Ulrek!”

“I apologize, human Ha Leeha.”

He decided not to meddle in external matters.

“An excellent decision.”

Chiyou smiled broadly and signaled to the bat swarm. Six vampires, far larger than ordinary bats, approached her.

* * *

“Kyle, Elizabeth. Release the tentacles around your waists.”

“W-wait!”

As the bats moved to snatch them, someone quickly reached out a hand.

“Oh, dear~? Mister Brown, are you coming with us too?”

“That, that’s not—no, but—”

Could he bear to watch his wife and son leave right before his eyes?

“Brown, partner….”

Browless also had a trickle of blood at the corner of his lips. He wanted to stop his comrades with his bitten lips, but he was powerless.

The 『Rapidfire』? An assassin who once terrorized most of the nobles on the Rope continent?

That was merely challenging the limits of humanity.

Moreover, the one restraining him now was Arcane Sniper.

Any rash movement would bring calamity to everyone, so Browless holding back was only natural.

Kidd, crouched at the top of the Red Zeppelin, met Brown’s gaze. He also saw Browless flinch.

What emotions had to be read in the silence exchanged between the two NPCs?

“… I’m… sorry, Les.”

“…”

Browless remained silent.

Brown couldn’t stand to send his wife and son into the abyss of magic.

He was the same man who, 20 years ago, had held his pregnant wife’s hand and ventured into a monster-infested place.

“I’m going too.”

“Oh, haha, excellent! An unexpected bonus, kids?”

At Chiyou’s words, three more bats flew in.

Three bats per person, ensuring they could transport the untangled NPCs safely.

Kaztor was already casting a spell. Everyone could see they were ready to leave.

“Grrr, Chiyou! What the hell are you doing? What do you plan to do with them?”

Leeha shouted in frustration, but Chiyou just grinned innocently.

“What do you mean, ‘what’?”

“What?”

“It’s fun, isn’t it?”

She was trembling.

Luger felt sick watching her face, momentarily consumed by ecstasy and pleasure. Chiyou giggled and commanded Kyle.

“Kyle. If you see anyone moving, shoot them immediately.”

Two bats were holding Kyle’s trapezius muscles. Another supported their feet with its body.

This meant Kyle could move his shoulders and arms, and his aim wouldn’t be significantly restricted in mid-air.

“Well then, Ha Leeha and company? I greatly thank you for safely treating Arcane Sniper and handing them over to me.”

Chiyou’s back sprouted wings that flapped gently.

She could fly even without assuming a bat’s form, resembling when she had just absorbed Bathory.

Luger spat on the ground.

“Shut up, you vile woman. I should have crushed that filthy smile the first time I saw it.”

“… Thank you, Luger. Let’s see who will deal with you first.”

Although she was still smiling, her voice wasn’t as cheerful.

Luger’s curses, filled with genuine rage, were harsh enough to shake even her typically stoic demeanor.

“Kekeke… Hahahah! Good, very good, Chiyou! Now, let’s go!”

“Yes, Kaztor.”

As Kaztor spoke, the surrounding clouds began to thin.

Chiyou flew towards Kaztor.

Bats carrying Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle chased after her.

Kaztor, keeping an eye on Browless and Leeha, Kidd, and Luger, quickly dispelled and then recast his protective magic. Seeing their unwavering vigilance despite having the upper hand, Kidd’s face twisted in frustration.

They were gradually distancing themselves from the Red Zeppelin.

Chiyou and Kaztor flew ‘backwards’ without taking their eyes off the Red Zeppelin.

“Oh, Ha Leeha.”

Once they had put some distance between them, Chiyou called out to Leeha. As he furrowed his brows, she continued.

“This time, I won, didn’t I?”

“… What?”

With that, she closed her mouth.

She tore her gaze away from the Red Zeppelin and began to speed up, looking at the night sky ahead.

Kaztor and the bats surrounded her and followed.

The sky was now clear without a single cloud.

It was a gloomy night, so melancholic that it felt like everything that had just happened was a dream, rather, a nightmare.

Kidd plopped down on the upper deck of the Red Zeppelin.

“… It’s over. With Arcane Sniper gone over… now….”

“Are you just going to give up like that? Huh? Are you going to sit there like an idiot, Kidd!”

“Can you do anything, Luger? If you use any noticeable skill, Kyle will shoot a bullet right away.”

“Grrr― Damn it all!”

Luger roared.

He could head to 〈Acht-Acht〉 immediately.

However, wouldn’t such a bright cyan light be noticeable in the night sky? There was no way that wouldn’t catch Kyle’s eye.

Thus, Kyle’s bullets would likely reach him, Kidd, Leeha, and Browless faster than the time it took to activate Acht-Acht.

“Kidd is right… For now… After reuniting with the Dragon… we need to find a way to retrieve them. It’s best not to act rashly now. Brown’s… his look wasn’t one of resignation.”

“Is that so.”

“Yeah.”

Listening to Browless, Kidd held onto a glimmer of hope. Perhaps the exchange of glances between Brown and Browless had meant something like that.

Was it a sign to come find him, implying that he would cooperate from the inside?

“Damn it… Whatever it is, we have to start searching from scratch.”

“That’s not true. At least we’re on course to 〈Laputa〉. It’s a relief that Chiyou’s bat swarm disappeared around here.”

They could have tortured Kyle, Elizabeth, or Brown to get information about their direction.

However, even if they could fly, laputa wasn’t something easily found. Concealing the Red Zeppelin’s whereabouts was a significant gain, and even if she happened to find Laputa by chance, without Ulrek, she couldn’t get in.

This notion reassured Kidd.

“Isn’t that right, ha― hm?!”

Kyle may have been captured, but they needed to prepare for the next step.

Luger and Fernand, including Kidd, shared this mindset.

Even NPC Browless was turning his thoughts in that direction. Yet, one person had not given up.

“What, what the?! Where did Ha Leeha go!”

“Is Leeha missing? Has Leeha disappeared?”

Leeha, who had been hanging onto the Red Zeppelin’s tentacles, was no longer in sight.

“The presence of human Ha Leeha cannot be felt. Even with our technology, it’s impossible to make someone vanish so suddenly.”

Listening to the shocked words of both humans and Ulrek, Kidd and Luger quickly opened the friend window of the Three Musketeers.

They thought his sudden disappearance might mean he logged out.

“He isn’t logged out.”

“What the heck, where did he go? How can he disappear right in front of our eyes― ugh!”

Luger shut his eyes tightly.

Not just Luger, but all the users had to close their eyes.

A sudden, intense burst of light from next to Kidd atop the dark night sky and Red Zeppelin’s upper deck compelled everyone to shield their eyes.

A beam of light cut through the night sky.

It was a single ray of hope erasing the nightmarish gloom.
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“… It’s over. Now that Arcane Sniper has switched sides… it’s over…”

“Are you just going to give up like that? Huh? Are you going to sit there like an idiot, Kidd!”

Hearing Kidd’s self-deprecating remark, Luger replied with disdain. Luger’s fists, striking the tentacles of Red Zeppelin, grew increasingly forceful.

“Sit there and give up like a fool, Kidd!”

While Kidd and Luger bickered, Leeha was watching Chiyou’s group moving away. Kyle was also still looking in their direction.

He knew that no matter how far they went, there was still a chance the Musketeers here could snipe his mother.

Thus, Leeha did not move hastily.

However, that didn’t mean he intended to remain idle.

‘When I move… it’s when I disappear from Kyle’s view while I’m on the right side of Red Zeppelin. Just a bit more and it’ll be fine, just a bit more… Now. Jellypong, move me to the upper deck of Red Zeppelin. 〈Melding Breath〉.’

The moment he had been waiting for arrived, and Leeha immediately let go of the tentacle.

Having already traveled a significant distance across the Eastern Continent in the 〈Melding Breath〉 state, Jellypong showed perfect synchronization with Leeha’s simple instructions.

On the upper deck of Red Zeppelin, Kidd was still muttering to himself.

Leeha saw him but couldn’t hear his voice. Kidd hadn’t noticed that Leeha was now beside him.

‘〈Sniping〉, 〈Eagle’s Eye〉. I have to make sure.’

Leeha assumed a kneeling shooting position on the upper deck of Red Zeppelin.

Although the night sky was clear, the distance between them was already significant. Losing focus even for a moment would make it difficult to find them again.

‘Damn it, the sway is stronger than I expected. Are they still cautious even with Kyle in their hands? Thorough as always.’

Compared to them, how were they?

They had anticipated that Chiyou and Kaztor would attack again someday, but they hadn’t expected it would be so soon.


Never in their wildest dreams did they think it would happen the moment they left Saur Land, on the way to Laputa.

They had over-relied on the firepower of their group, which included the previous Three Musketeers and Kyle, whose anomalies they had fixed. In other words, arcane Bullet’s Shooter.

‘Chiyou exploited that blind spot. We were foolish.’

The psychological blind spot created by having the mentor of the Three Musketeers by their side was bigger than expected.

Why had they forgotten their most important mission was to ‘protect’ Elizabeth and Kyle?

That was the gap Chiyou exploited.

‘Fine. I lost this round, Chiyou. But… I’m not one to lose and do nothing about it.’

Leeha was firmly observing their group through 〈Distorted Vision〉 and 〈Eagle’s Eye〉.

‘Phewwww…’

Who should he aim at? Elizabeth?

Killing Elizabeth here, now?

‘No, it’s too late.’

Moreover, with Brown accompanying her, even if Elizabeth died, Chiyou would immediately turn Brown into a vampire without being flustered.

Most importantly, killing Elizabeth at this point would reduce their chance of retrieving Kyle to zero.

‘Kyle would never forgive the one who killed Elizabeth.’

Eliminating Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle only left two targets.

Chiyou or Kaztor.

Leeha alternated his aim between the two.

Who should he shoot? Who should be killed now to achieve the most certain and beneficial outcome?

The choice was simple.


A sniper only had one target to aim for on the battlefield.

‘The highest-ranking person at the moment.’

This was about rank, not age.

If he had to pick the highest-ranking person among the enemies at the moment?

‘Chiyou.’

Though he used honorifics with Kaztor, Leeha hadn’t missed the clue she let slip.

The influence a Vampire Queen held over other vampires.

As Kaztor was already a vampire, it would be difficult for him to go against Chiyou.

Leeha’s rifle stayed firmly fixed.

‘She won’t be able to react to this shot. Moreover, I’ve already confirmed that Kaztor cannot use that mirage-like protection magic while moving.’

While Kaztor could use a simple barrier, he could not activate a protective magic that would absorb attacks.

‘That’s why they move evasively. That’s the fatal flaw… Just as I showed you my skills, I also observed yours.’

–Kekeke… I’ll have fresh blood to drink soon.–

Black Bass smacked its lips.

“Thanks to the vampires, we had already reached 49.9%. And with this one shot, I’ll break through the 50% barrier.”

Leeha quietly used his skill.

〈Melding Breath〉, a skill that remained invisible until activation.

And a skill that Chiyou “still didn’t know about”.

〈White Reaper〉.

Black Bass coiled around Leeha’s arm.


When a ray of light illuminated the night sky, an alarm rang in Leeha’s head.

Thunk―

* * *

“Impressive, Chiyou. Quite impressive.”

“Was it alright?”

“It reminded me of my younger days. I’m glad you understand the thrill of seeing a meticulous strategy come together.”

“Oh, you’re being too kind. I’m still far from being compared to you, Kaztor-nim.”

Chiyou softly smiled as she lowered her head. She could sense Kaztor’s excitement.

The delight of reclaiming Arcane Sniper.

The anticipation of now being able to seize and shake the world.

Above all, the reassurance of a reliable ally, unlike when working alone.

“Much safer and more comfortable than devouring everything solo… Moving someone who has found a place to lean on is not difficult.”

Chiyou made every effort to flatter Kaztor.

“Kaztor-nim?”

“Hehehe, yes? What’s the matter?”

“In the future… won’t I have to always be with you?”

“Of course, hehehe. You and I are now inseparable.”

Kaztor’s attitude remained unchanged.

This was partly because Chiyou, leveraging her vampire traits, had never pressured him, and also because Kaztor was brimming with confidence.

“So, what I mean is… should any problems arise for me in the future, would you be able to protect me…?”

“Problems? Hahaha! I have Arcane Sniper in my hands! Oh, Bluebeard? Is it because of Le? That arrogant Demon King’s Fragment can be turned to dust right now. Shall I do that for you?”

Kaztor boasted as if he personally controlled Kyle.

Though this irked Chiyou, she didn’t show it. Besides, what was the point in fighting with an NPC in a game? She was a woman who took advantage.

“That would be nice too, but… I’ve got some matters to discuss ‘in person’ with the count. You can’t do that right now…”

“Fine, whatever you want. Just say the word! Right now, I feel like I could even grant you control over the Lope continent!”

“Oh my, that would only be a hindrance to someone like me who lacks any governance skills. I simply want a small promise from you.”

“A promise?”

Chiyou nodded in response to Kaztor’s query.

With a light flutter, she approached Kaztor.

“If something happens to me… a promise that you’ll take responsibility.”

Then she gently wrapped her arms around Kaztor’s neck.

At that moment, she wasn’t the Vampire Queen. The charm skill she directed at Kaztor with her moist eyes—the power of a dancer—was strong enough to bring an aged Dark Elf to his knees.

“That’s nothing difficult. Alright, I will take responsibility. Hehe, after all, I need you to use Arcane Bullet smoothly.”

Kaztor readily agreed.

No doubt Chiyou’s ‘skill’ had an effect, but it was Kaztor’s confidence that swayed him.

“Indeed, it would be best to prevent any issues from arising in the first place. Even without using Arcane Sniper, Elizabeth and Brown’s skills alone would make it hard for most to even approach. If I give just a little help, even ‘those guys’ can’t take us down. Hehe. Above all…”

Kaztor glanced at Elizabeth and Brown, grinning.

The direction Kaztor pointed when referring to ‘those guys’ was where the Red Zeppelin resided.

“With Browless and Ha Leeha there… those obstinate ones are bound to track us.”

“Indeed. This is exactly why I asked for your help, Kaztor-nim.”

“Alright, alright. Don’t worry, Chiyou. I have seen your abilities, so from now on— What!?”

“Kyaaah—!”

A flash of light erupted.

It all happened in an instant.

When Kaztor reopened his eyes, there was only one change where the light had vanished.

“Chiyou! Chiyou?! What, what, what is this—what kind of attack is this?!”

Something was burning through the hole in Chiyou’s chest. Kaztor hurriedly called out to Chiyou, but she did not respond.

Chiyou, having lost the power of her wings, collapsed forward.

The surrounding bats hurriedly grabbed her and maintained altitude, but Chiyou showed no signs of getting up.

“Damn it, everyone stop! ‘Maze Dimension!'”

Kaztor immediately cast a defensive spell.

At this point, Kaztor was the next highest-grade vampire after Chiyou, so all the bats obeyed his commands.

“Kyle! Why didn’t you see them!”

“There… was no sign of an attack at all… if there was, we would have…”

Kyle quickly raised his gun.

Elizabeth shouted at him urgently.

“No, Kyle! Mom is fine! You can’t shoot them!”

Hearing her scream, Kaztor raged.

Kaztor had certainly been looking at Kyle from his left side.

“Shut up, Elizabeth! Shoot now, Kyle! Or I’ll— ngh!”

In an instant, he found himself looking at Kyle from the right side.

He couldn’t understand the sudden change in position. And it wasn’t just the position that had changed.

“What… why—bats—”

Even if he wanted to ask, he couldn’t speak anymore. He couldn’t move either.

A multitude of bats were holding him down.

“Ugh…”

Kaztor’s head slowly drooped.

The old dark elf, who was losing all color, finally realized it.

The huge hole in his chest and the black masses gnawing at its edges.

Kaztor raised his head again.

He couldn’t move. He couldn’t make himself move.

“You… earlier—what kind of… magic—”

“Hah, I almost got too late. Isn’t that right, Kaztor-nim?”

Above all, knowing ‘why this happened’ filled his eyes with rage.

In the last moment, Chiyou had embraced Kaztor’s neck and used ‘Blood Oath’.

Unlike the simple command of ‘Blood Vow’, this skill could make a vampire of a certain level die instead of oneself.

‘It’s a skill that you can only cast on someone with similar power to me, but the effect is good.’

Kaztor’s eyes burned as he looked at Chiyou, who was looking down at him.

“Forgive, ugh! I can’t forgive…”

The hole in his chest had now completely eroded his upper chest, spreading to his armpits and below the navel.

If the circle grew just a bit larger, his arms, not even connected to his shoulders, would fall off.

There was even a possibility that his lower body and upper body would completely separate.

Despite such pain, despite such wounds, Kaztor lifted his head to gaze at Chiyou.

The dark elf’s grudge was intense.

And Chiyou was more than enough to play with the intense dark elf.

“Forgive? Who forgives whom, Kaztor-nim? You can’t even move now; you’re going to become ash soon, trying to forgive me? Haha! That’s great. Wonderful. Just disappear without forgiving me.”

Chiyou was paying back everything she had suffered from the dark elf.

“‘Arcane Sniper’—my… dream—”

Kaztor’s fingertips quivered.

Everyone here knew who he was trying to point at.

Kaztor had tried to capture Arcane Sniper for the revival of the dark elf race.

Though his goal and methods were twisted, his concern for his people was immensely pure.

Of course, this was a fact only the players who followed Kaztor’s story quest knew.

Chiyou cautiously lowered her body, bringing her face close to Kaztor’s face.

“Thank you. Now it’s ‘my dream’.”

Chiyou devoured even the last fragment of the dark elf’s hope.

She did not have a trace of sympathy for Kaztor or regret for his thoughts.

“Chi—”

There was no more fire in Kaztor’s eyes. His head hung low, having lost all dreams and hope.

“—you…”

His body turned to ash gray.
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Chiyou stared blankly at Kaztor’s corpse.

With Kaztor’s complete death, the circle on his chest no longer grew.

“Kids~? Though I want to throw away this annoying old man’s corpse right away… we’ll need to take it with us for now, so hold onto it tightly.”

Chiyou commanded the bats.

She was curious about what kind of item he might drop, but the most definitive reason Chiyou had decided to kill Kaztor was Lee Jiwon.

“Even being reborn as an undead, he said he could freely use the skills he possessed.”

If that was related to his memories?

Though turned into a vampire and now in a subordinate relationship, should Chiyou keep someone potentially stronger than herself nearby?

Chiyou didn’t think so.

If there was even the slightest chance of unforeseen incidents, it shouldn’t already be part of the plan.

Chiyou’s desire was to consider every possibility, even the one-in-a-million chances, and move while holding everything in her hands.

“If it’s possible to make him undead, that’d be great, hehe.”

Killing Kaztor, who had already become a vampire, and then resurrecting him as an undead.

This way, she could eliminate any suspicion or possibility of betrayal and extract all the information he possessed.

“What I like most is that he can be disposed of anytime. This old man was just too clingy and useless.”

Chiyou shuddered.

The NPCs, who couldn’t understand her grand scheme, couldn’t help but ask her.

“How, exactly—”

“How did you know there would be an attack?”

Why did she kill Kaztor?


To the NPCs, it would just register as a ‘rebellion’ or ‘coup d’etat’. Therefore, their question to Chiyou was about Leeha’s attack.

“Hmm…”

Chiyou looked at them.

There was no need to explain.

She could easily ignore the NPCs’ questions.

Besides, Elizabeth was bound to obey her as a vampire, wasn’t she?

However, Chiyou wanted to speak.

To ensure they harbored no other thoughts and to completely tame them, she spoke with a smile.

“Of course… it’s because it’s Ha Leeha.”

“What? Ha Leeha? Are you saying Ha Leeha did this?”

“Oh my, aren’t you Ha Leeha’s mentor? If even you didn’t know, it must be a really cherished skill. It turned out well.”

The system shouldn’t have revealed the attacker in a sure-kill judgment.

But Chiyou had resurrected thanks to the skill, ‘Blood Loyalty.’

In other words, by swapping bodies with Kaztor, she survived and could see who the attacker was according to the system.

“Answer me! How did you predict Ha Leeha’s attack? It was something even we couldn’t foresee—”

“So, I provoked him, didn’t I?”

Elizabeth and Brown were momentarily lost for words. Seeing them, Chiyou showed a bit of favor.

“Don’t you remember? This. Time. I. Won.”

The last words she had said to Leeha.

She perfectly replicated the tone and atmosphere from that moment.


If it served as a provocation, Ha Leeha would definitely target those fleeing.

And that target would certainly be me.

Chiyou was convinced.

It wasn’t relying on a simple guess but understanding the enemy’s character and pattern to perfectly control the situation.

And if she was sure of Ha Leeha’s attack?

Assuming he would surely use something that could kill in one blow?

Couldn’t she naturally use Ha Leeha to eliminate Kaztor?

“This is… impossible. To have such a… level of planning—”

“What’s impossible about it? This level of meticulousness is necessary… to negotiate with the Demon King’s Fragments, don’t you think?”

Looking at the astonished Elizabeth and Brown, whose eyes seemed about to pop out, Chiyou winked.

The two NPCs couldn’t speak any further.

Kyle, listening to Chiyou’s words, had two thoughts. One was fear of the player Chiyou, the second was the name of the person who had provoked him.

Kyle muttered that name softly.

“Leeha… sunbae.”

Kyle held his rifle tightly.

A shooter capable of using the true power of Arcane Bullet looked at the night sky with a somber expression.

『The Saur Land Request』

The quest had been completed.

The “Grudge Eater” achievement had been acquired.

The “Guardian of the Dark Elf Clan” achievement had been acquired.


He had leveled up.

He had leveled up again.

“Huh?”

Leeha tilted his head in confusion.

He had expected the level-up and achievements to pop up, but why were the achievement names like that?

Of course, the ones more surprised than Leeha were the nearby users.

“Ha, Ha Leeha?! Why have you appeared here?!”

“What’s going on? Ha Leeha, did you teleport? How did you get here?”

“Leeha… was that light just now…?”

Kidd, Luger, and Browless were startled and stared at Leeha in shock.

Around Leeha, who was kneeling beside Kidd, a soft glow lingered.

The level-up effect had already ended.

His body had shone because he used “White Reaper” followed by “Platinum Shield” in preparation for Kyle’s counterattack.

However, Leeha couldn’t answer their questions.

‘Why…? Why did completing the Saur Land quest achievement happen after killing Chiyou?’

The quest had been a request to treat Kyle in Saur Land with the completion condition being ‘Death of Dark Elf Kaztor.’

But it had been completed?

‘… No way. This doesn’t make any sense. Why? No… why? I definitely shot Chiyou—didn’t I?’

Leeha blinked.

He hadn’t shot incorrectly.

The shot from White Reaper had stretched straight along the trajectory he had targeted through the scope and hit perfectly. Hadn’t he directly seen the hole in Chiyou’s chest and her collapse from the impact?

‘I’d even seen the bats grabbing Chiyou! The surrounding chaos ensued. The sniper shot definitely succeeded.’

Even though he hadn’t seen the bats disintegrate into ashes due to their rampage afterward, he had clearly hit Chiyou.

That’s why he couldn’t comprehend the current situation at all.

There was no way Kaztor had died ‘in place of’ Chiyou, but it was impossible to reveal this at this moment.

‘Whatever happened, there’s only one thing I know for sure…’

Leeha bit down on his back teeth and spoke.

“Kaztor is dead.”

“What?! What do you mean—what? What are you saying?”

Luger’s eyes widened to twice their usual size. Kidd, belatedly comprehending Leeha’s words, responded with an equally flustered expression.

“… I can’t understand a single thing you’re saying. What do you mean?”

“Leeha?”

Only after hearing Browless’s question did Leeha make an additional remark.

“I don’t know exactly either. I shot, and Kaztor is dead.”

Leeha tilted his head again, and at that moment, light began emanating from Black Bass’s bolt.

―Grrrr… Haaaah… ―

“Wh-what? Bl-Black—”

Everyone’s gaze focused on Black Bass.

There was another piece of evidence confirming Kaztor’s death right there.

―It was old fox’s life. Hahaha… There’s nothing more satisfying than directly ending such a grudge-filled life. I should be thankful to you contractor. ―

“No way—”

Leeha quickly opened Black Bass’s item window.

〈Legendary Black Bass with Pulsating Veins (First Reinforcement—Lava)〉

(Non-tradable)

Additional Effect—3: Charge Rate: 50%

(Charge Rate does not decrease.)

Additional Effect—4: Direct Damage to the Nature of the Target

(Ignores all damage avoidance methods such as clones, spirits, life transfers, etc.)

Additional Description—3: The awakened ego has consumed enough blood. The blood of innumerable creatures constitutes the bloodline connecting its self. Black Bass’s ego, having tasted various kinds of blood, now desires to devour beings beyond its current reach. Only two remain. Only the blood of those beings that are more than mere life forms will rewrite its myth.

Additional Effect—5: Penetrates Physical Protection of Target

(Ignores shields, armor, helmets, and other physical defenses)

The first thing that caught his eye was, of course, the item’s name.

It was no longer the modifier “awakened.”

As stated in the new notation “Additional Description―3”, had the blood vessels of the Black Bass, having consumed enough blood, started to throb?

However, compared to the options attached later, things like the name or Additional Description―3 were nothing shocking.

“Oh… my… god.”

Leeha could not shut his mouth as he read Additional Effect―5.

Physical protection object penetration?

In other words, no matter how much armor someone had in front of Leeha or even if they were the best tank in Middle Earth, they would be as good as “exposed and unarmored” before him!

Although it was regrettable that it did not penetrate skills or barriers, how amazing was this skill alone?

‘Bl-Black? What is―what is this? What does this mean? Does this mean I no longer need to worry about the reduction rate?’

—That’s right, contractor. Kukuku… I didn’t expect you to make my pulse race this quickly.—

‘Then! Wow, then!? Now what? What do I have to kill to make it 100%? What is this, blood that isn’t even from a living creature!?’

Leeha got quite excited.

No matter how much he tried to speak so only Black Bass could hear, his muttering was clear for Kidd and other users to see.

—Kukuku… there’s only one blood without a living creature in it. What makes up Middle Earth, those. God and and the Devil.—

‘What? God—what did you say? Where can I—how?’

— Contractor, there are already many of them around you. Those who serve god and borrow divine power… there’s something in their blood I can consume… Kill them. Kill everything related to Ahlo.—

At this point, Leeha had to shut his mouth.

People related to gods, in other words, all jobs using divine-based skills, including priests.

This naturally implied killing all humans in the Ezwen Church.

“Crazy…”

Leeha could not help but frown.

Only now did he understand what Elizabeth had said before.

It wanted blood, and that too, a lot of it.

There was only one thing left to boost the charge rate.

‘PK…?’

He had to kill people, and in overwhelming numbers at that.

That’s why Elizabeth did not bother to fill the charge rate after 50%.

While related to demons, the Demon King’s Fragments might have an effect. But even if filled with demon-related things, how could he handle the divine-related ones?

So, Elizabeth would have stopped considering 100% charge rate once satisfied with 50%.

“Why! What now! Damn it, is something happening again! What changed?”

As Leeha, who had been jumping in excitement, suddenly grew quiet, Luger rushed to him. Having already released the tentacles and climbed onto the upper part of Red Zeppelin, his curiosity was too strong to feel vertigo.

“Uh… haha.”

No matter how excited Luger got, there was no way Leeha could explain right away.

Kidd snorted at the sight.

“…Whatever happens to Ha Leeha, it doesn’t matter. I’ll… soon be like that as well.”

In his hand, he held two Crimson Geckos. The two he held and the two holstered—Crimson Geckos in all four cylinders were emitting light.

Kidd pressed his hat brim down with a satisfied smile.

‘In the end, it reached the zero-sum level, huh.’

Lost 《Arcane Sniper》.

Lost Elizabeth and Brown.

But gained 《Arcane Bullet》.

Killed Kaztor.

Weighed what he lost and gained on scales, where would it tilt?

So far, the clear loss was on Leeha’s side.

However, individual growth?

Before adding that value, it was hard to easily judge.

‘It seems like Black Bass has clearly grown too. Adding Luger’s and my growth…’

Kidd was convinced.

From Leeha’s reaction alone, it was an easy prediction that his weapon, Black Bass, had reached another level.

What else?

Besides Leeha, Kidd himself grew.

And Luger?

No one would forget that unbelievable skill he showed.

The intense battle on Red Zeppelin was enough to grow the Three Musketeers.

‘It’s not a huge loss. With this, surely…’

TL’s Corner:

Tsk. Still pissed.
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The calculations of Kidd, the ‘Leader’ of the Three Musketeers, suggested that, although things might not be favorable, the damage wasn’t severe.

However, those were calculations that still hadn’t accounted for a few ‘variables’.

“Phew… The achievement ‘Butcher of 666 Beasts’ is quite unpleasant.”

Alexander, who had already unlocked the 〈Fusion〉 skill and arrived at the Red Zeppelin with Bailephus, interjected casually.

“What does that mean?”

Kidd asked.

Alexander, lifting his chin importantly, replied, “Ahem, it’s nothing. Just a record stating that I killed 666 vampires in the name of justice. Nothing much. Really.”

Luger glanced at him with an expression hinting he didn’t find it amusing.

“… Are you boasting about that now? Both you and Ha Leeha…”

It wasn’t just The Three Musketeers who had grown.

Alexander had single-handedly killed 666 out of the thousand vampires led by Chiyou. This was a remarkable achievement, enough to make Luger’s nose twitch.

Kidd realized he had to recalculate.

Considering Alexander’s growth attributed to this achievement, and the losses to Chiyou’s forces from losing 666 vampires, what then?

As Kidd’s lips curled into a smirk, he realized that the results of this battle, previously seen as slightly unfavorable, should now be seen as almost equally damaging on both sides.

While Luger and Alexander were engaged in a back-and-forth about who had killed more vampires and questioning each other’s skills, Bailephus approached Leeha.

“Is Chiyou dead?”

Bailephus asked as Leeha finally gathered his thoughts.

“No. Kaztor is dead… but Chiyou seems to be fine. I don’t know how that happened”, Leeha answered.

Bailephus nodded gravely.

“I see. In that case…”


“We should find and kill her quickly”, Leeha replied with determination.

It was not the time to worry about the next stage of Black Bass. They had overcome the 50% barrier, and the charging rate would no longer decrease. This meant they would surely find a way to reach 100%.

That was what mattered most to Leeha.

Upon hearing Leeha’s words, Bailephus said no more. He knew that any more discussion at this point would be pointless.

Ulrek was also silent for the same reason.

“Conversations can wait until we reach Laputa. Just remember, we can’t enter Laputa unless we are tied to the Red Zeppelin’s tentacles”, Ulrek warned quietly. Even NPC Browless, along with the users, was taken aback by Ulrek’s calm demeanor.

—If that damned dino brat had helped us… so infuriating.

—Yeah, if only he had cast something like Toon’s area-wide dispel spell.

—Didn’t they experience it in their country? All their actions and thoughts are based solely on logic and efficiency.

Although Luger and Leeha grumbled, they knew Kidd was right.

They had already predicted that no help would come from them.

They hurried down and entrusted their bodies to the tentacles. Just moments ago, they had fought at an unknown altitude, yet now they were on a serene flight.

* * *

The flight towards Laputa continued.

Not being restricted by terrain and with the Red Zeppelin’s considerable speed, following the moving island still took quite a bit of time.

On the flip side, this allowed Leeha’s group ample time to discuss the recent battle and future plans.

Kaztor was dead, and they knew something about Chiyou.

They also needed to consider the variable that Elizabeth had become a vampire. However, Elizabeth and Brown were merely hostages related to specific individuals.

Ultimately, the most frequently discussed topic was all related to Kyle.

“Hmm… This is going to be a tough fight. 『Arcane Sniper』…”


“Yes. We have confirmed the power of 『Arcane Bullet』.”

Leeha sighed softly at the end of his sentence. Kidd was the one who noticed what he was worrying about.

“Can we really say we ‘confirmed’ it?”

“Indeed. Damn it, all I saw was a flash. Ha Leeha, what did you see?”

Even Luger grumbled as he asked Leeha, but Leeha shook his head.

None of them had captured the moment Kyle fired the bullet at Elizabeth.

They had experienced ‘Arcane Bullet’ right before their eyes, yet they couldn’t ‘confirm’ how it had been executed or how it was fired, which was clearly frustrating.

Especially for Leeha who possessed the skill 〈White Reaper〉, which utilized ‘Arcane Bullet’, it was even more disappointing.

‘When Shimo used 〈White Reaper〉, there was a delay. The light gathered sufficiently before it flashed and was fired. Moreover, you could see the laser moving, splitting, and expanding.’

Although it was an extremely short time, they could clearly see the ‘light.’

The trajectory and traces of the moving light, the overwhelming intimidation as it split and instantly engulfed their vision.

Even though it was an inferior technique, 〈White Reaper〉 had enough special effects to be called ‘Arcane Bullet.’

But the original technique, Arcane Bullet, was fired in such a futile manner?

‘Black, did you see anything? Or should I say, feel anything?’

―Kuh kuh, chaos and destruction, and forgetfulness.―

‘Huh?’

―If I swallow everything, that guy makes everything spit out. Kuh kuh… he’s a guy who loves to waste. How troublesome.―

‘… What are you talking about? We’re talking about Arcane Bullet here.’

―Yes, imprinted One.―

Leeha tilted his head in confusion.


Could he really communicate with Black Bass? Both Black Bass and Leeha fell silent.

‘Spit out… what?’

―Life force.―

Leeha had to shake his head eventually.

The expression ‘spit out life force’ itself was unfamiliar and didn’t resonate at all.

“So, the existence of Arcane Bullet is still shrouded in mystery.”

“That might not be the case, dragon.”

“You’ve discovered something, Kidd?”

With a sigh from Bailephus, Kidd opened his mouth.

While everyone was fixated on the blinking light effect, the ‘brain’ of the Three Musketeers tried to approach from a different angle.

“Elizabeth’s rifle disappeared. It wasn’t lost or dropped… it literally vanished.”

What happened ‘after’ the flashing light? What happened to Elizabeth’s rifle?

As Kidd described, it did not break, disassemble, or fall; it simply vanished without a trace in the blink of an eye.

“Just as Kidd described. Bess… her posture didn’t change. Her finger was still on the trigger.”

Browless, who had the closest view of her, added.

Only then did Leeha’s curiosity pique.

Elizabeth’s suicide attempt posture had not changed.

If ‘Arcane Bullet’ had strongly struck her rifle to prevent her suicide attempt, her posture should have wavered.

It would have been like massive energy striking horizontally.

Yet, there was no change at all. How could that be?

“… Annihilation?”

Luger muttered a single word but then shook his head and corrected himself.

“No… deletion?”

Luger’s eyes slowly turned toward Kidd.

The look that said, ‘Are you thinking the same?’

Kidd didn’t avoid his gaze. He only nodded.

“Deletion? What do you mean? What are you talking about?”

Leeha hastily asked as he saw the two Three Musketeers making eye contact.

Kidd whispered in a voice low enough that Bailephus and Browless wouldn’t hear.

“Think of what Middle Earth is.”

“What do you mean, what is Middle Earth? It’s a world—”

expressed through a game.

Leeha couldn’t continue his sentence.

Kidd and Luger felt it vaguely.

Perhaps, the ability Arcane Sniper possesses, that authority, is exactly this.

‘Permanent deletion of the specified target?’

It doesn’t matter if you’re in a sealed room. Distance is irrelevant. It is not affected by terrain features.

Arcane Bullet doesn’t aim to eliminate everything in its path.

It only eliminates the target that Arcane Sniper is aiming for.

An effect that satisfies all these conditions?

There is no such thing. If possible, there is only one way.

‘Delete… what is this? A command? Hold on— Then what about 〈White Reaper〉? If it’s possible on a wide scale?

That means Arcane Bullet can also be possible on a wide scale, right?

The bullet is just one, but if you can adjust its ‘range’?

White Reaper splits upon impact with snow. There are definite conditions attached to its division and expansion.

Leeha got goosebumps. White Reaper was a degraded version.

If there were no such conditions, what would happen when 《Arcane Bullet》 was fired on a broad scale?

‘Everything within the range… deleted? Without any conditions or restrictions? This is absurd!’

Leeha was too shocked to continue speaking.

It was somewhat consistent with what Black Bass had said.

— Heh, spilling life away. What a waste.—

The meaning of deleting something through a command meant extracting the corresponding data from the game program called Middle Earth.

Seeing Leeha’s gaping mouth, Luger and Kidd couldn’t say a word.

“We need to recalculate.”

Kidd, who had thought that the exchange of fire wasn’t a gain or loss for either side, had to revise his thoughts.

In the suddenly chilly atmosphere, no one dared to speak first.

A dinosaur watched the humans, who were bound by Red Zeppelin’s tentacles and lost in their thoughts.

GM’s eyes gleamed.

* * *

『Guo-oo-ooo-oo』

“What?”

“What, what is it?”

How long had they been flying lost in thought? Red Zeppelin let out a heavy wail.

“We are almost there at Laputa. We will arrive within two hours.”

Of course, that act was like a signal announcing their arrival. Hearing Urec’s words, the users felt a bit more at ease.

“There won’t be any more obstacles.”

“I wonder what we’ll find in Laputa! Of course, there will be a perfect map of the New Continent, but what else?”

Alexander and Fernand began chatting in high spirits.

Although Luger and Kidd, who had somewhat grasped the identity of Arcane Bullet, remained gloomy, Leeha was a bit different.

It wasn’t merely because they were almost at Laputa that his expression brightened.

‘There must be conditions.’

Unlike Luger and Kidd remaining gloomy, Leeha knew.

He had heard from Francis, the 《Arcane Sniper》 who had passed on 〈White Reaper〉 to Panrind.

‘I can only teach you this, he had said. It wasn’t because of the characteristics of the snow-covered northern Shazrashian. Rather… it is more accurate to interpret that, in that moment, in that situation, the only Arcane Bullet they could use was that.’

If that wasn’t the case, wouldn’t Francis have passed on all the secrets of Arcane Bullet instead of just 〈White Reaper〉?

The fact that he taught a skill optimal for the current situation implies that every Arcane Bullet likely has some sort of penalty or that each Arcane Bullet comes with its own unique conditions.

‘However, it’s unlikely there’s just one Arcane Bullet for snowy fields, one for rainy days, or one for underwater.’

It might not be conditions related to terrain or climate but something entirely different.
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Zamiel wasn’t someone to be underestimated. Leeha also knew this.

The avatar of the Devil that transcended time and space wouldn’t rely on mere conditions like snow, rain, sea, mountains, or sky.

Leeha quietly closed his eyes. The ‘White Reaper’ required snow. But what was that snow?

‘It could only be used after performing a ceremonial snow reqiuem. I obtained it as a sign of respect for the purest snow—’

And it was related to the existence of the spirit governing it.

‘Could it be related to a spirit? Or is it just a psychological limitation? Extreme anger, severe depression, confusion, conditions like these?’

Since he couldn’t fully understand the algorithm of the NPC’s mentality, Leeha couldn’t grasp it right away.

However, there was something he could say more certainly than Luger or Kidd.

‘《Arcane Sniper》 isn’t unconditional. There are clearly conditions. For instance, the final bullet eliminates—not just that—it deletes the user itself. That’s one of the conditions.’

No significant changes had occurred.

Kyle was still in the enemy’s hands, and Elizabeth and Brown’s fate was uncertain.

But knowing that 《Arcane Sniper》 couldn’t be used unlimitedly or unconditionally was enough to ease his mind somewhat.

“Oh right, Ulrek-nim!”

“What’s the matter, human Ha Leeha?”

“Well, it got a little weird, but… we finished the job for the King of Saur Land.”

“You mean killing that covetous dark elf?”

“Yes, so… ahem, when could we expect the payment for the job…?”

Leeha asked with an awkward face.

Ulrek stared at Leeha for a moment and shook his head.

“It’s something I can’t answer. More importantly, haven’t the conditions changed?”


Leeha had somewhat expected what Ulrek would say.

Strictly speaking, the quest to assassinate Kaztor, 『Saur Land’s Request』, was meant to eliminate the danger posed by ‘Arcane Sniper’.

However, Leeha couldn’t say that the threat was entirely gone just because Kaztor was dead.

‘Darn Chiyou. I should level her up to 10 by infinite judgments so I can feel relieved.’

Because Arcane Sniper was still in the enemy’s hands.

But Leeha wasn’t one to back down.

“Conditions—well… yes, but it was also our agreement after all.”

“You’ll have to discuss that with His Majesty.”

“I understand.”

Simply gaining access to Saur Land and having a chance to meet the king once was already a considerable achievement.

“A persistent person, aren’t you.”

“Trying to get the quest acknowledged even in this situation?”

“Of course! After all this effort, would you just throw it away? I’m completely broke right now!”

Seeing Leeha getting indignant, Luger and Kidd shook their heads.

But they weren’t entirely empty-handed.

〈Achievement: Grudge Eater (S-)〉

Congratulations!

You have successfully defeated a creature that lived its entire life filled with yin energy. All the curses, fears, confusions, criticisms, and persecutions have been purified and absorbed by you. Absorbed energy, you ask? For those who awaited your absorption, it will be an excellent nourishment!

Reward: Intelligence +11, mind Power +10, dark Attribute Spirit Affinity +10%

You are the second registrant of the ‘Grudge Eater’ achievement.


The first three registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and its effect will be doubled.

Effect: Intelligence +22, mind Power +20, dark Attribute Spirit Affinity +20%

Increased affinity with dark attribute spirits.

Leeha had already been acknowledged by two dark attribute spirits of darkness and fear.

The achievement ‘Spirit Enchanter’ confirmed this.

But it wasn’t an achievement that boosted affinity so blatantly. Leeha was curious to see how this would play out subsequently.

‘It’s funny that I’m the second registrant in the Hall of Fame. There must be another NPC—no, monster as gloomy as Kaztor in Middle Earth. If anyone would seek that out…’

Prea.

Leeha thought of the white spiritualist.

If she found out about this achievement, she would have run to it with eyes blazing.

“Perhaps she might even be the first registrant.”

Where could she be and what could she be doing now?

Leeha found it increasingly difficult to gather any more information about Chiyou. Hence, he thought that he needed to firmly establish his relationship with Prea soon.

The ‘bait’ for that was sufficient in its own way.

〈Achievement: Guardian of the Dark Elf Tribe (S)〉

Congratulations!

You have saved the Dark Elf Tribe from danger! Since the 〈Pope Ezwen’s Death Incident〉, all eyes have been on the Dark Elf race, and now they are being watched by every nation on the continent. If 〈Kaztor〉 had carried out another mass killing or assassination incident, the plan to annihilate the Dark Elves, led by the Wood Elves, would have been executed. However, by disposing of 〈Kaztor〉, the root of all evil, you have ensured the safety and peace of the Dark Elves once more. The entire Dark Elf tribe acknowledges you as their guardian. You are now able to meet the guardian spirit they revere.

Reward: Strength +6, agility +15, intelligence+4

Right to contact the Guardian Spirit of the Dark Elves

You are the first registrant of 〈Guardian of the Dark Elf Tribe〉 achievement.


The first three registrants of this achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.

Effect: Strength +12, agility +30, intelligence+8

Guardian Spirit.

Leeha had never seen the Dark Elves use spirits.

“They themselves said it too. They aren’t familiar with spirits. I’ve never seen them use the so-called Four Great Elemental Spirits.”

But were they completely divorced from spirits?

Just because the Wood Elves were adept in mana and spirits and the Dark Elves excelled in physical combat, did that mean they had lost the ability to use spirits?

Leeha didn’t think so.

The term ‘Guardian Spirit’ in the achievement, and the underlying source of their power, raised many questions for him.

Leeha fiddled with his necklace.

Back when he first killed Igor, the item that Igor dropped.

Wasn’t the skill attached to the necklace used by the Dark Elf hero called 〈Forbidden Fury〉?

“Blaugrunn, we’re about to enter Laputa now.”

“Finally, you’ve arrived! Do you have any idea how anxious I’ve been waiting? I wish I could go too, but Ha Leeha only—”

“Hehe, anyway, the authority lies with me, so I’ll work something out so you can come next time. By the way, what I mentioned earlier: did you look into it?”

As soon as he obtained the Guardian of the Dark Elf Tribe achievement, Leeha inspected its contents and, after going through a series of thoughts, immediately commissioned Blaugrunn to investigate.

– Yes, I confirmed with the Lord. It’s certain.

– As expected… I knew it since there were spirits of ‘fear’.

There was a spirit of darkness and a terror spirit. If so?

– There must be a 〈Spirit of Fury〉 as well.

– But its existence alone is confirmed. Meeting it won’t be easy.

– Oh, Blaugrunn, you still don’t know me. How would I have known that? Do you think I would know without meeting it first?

– W-Wait, Ha Leeha-ssi! Please explain properly!

– Hah, Blaugrunn, you just sit tight and enjoy the show. Just follow me.

The guardian spirit of the Dark Elves.

Leeha believed it to be the 〈Spirit of Fury〉.

Moreover, considering its ominous name, there would be no need to verify that it was a dark attribute spirit.

If he could meet it and increase his affinity?

Blaugrunn’s whispers were making Leeha’s head spin. He couldn’t listen to his voice any longer.

“Oh, oh! That’s it! That’s the one!”

“Indeed… Its majestic presence remains unchanged.”

“Yes, something the Lord would be pleased with.”

Fernand, Alexander, and Bailephus all had eyes filled with emotion.

So did the other humans present.

“My, my… What on earth is that…”

Even Browless wore an expression of disbelief, so how must Leeha and the other users have been feeling?

“What is that huge size! And not a single monster on such a vast land?”

“Wow… I thought it was just some floating rock… But this? It could accommodate an entire city.”

Breaking through the clouds, what appeared below was literally another continent. A lone flying island, so high that the ground seemed distant and detached. Kidd nodded quietly.

“That’s why it’s called the ‘Island in the Sky’. That’s 〈Laputa〉.”

The grand mass of land defied gravity as it moved.

“Wow, Prince! The Red Zeppelin is—”

“Hmm. We are entering.”

When GM, who was visiting Laputa for the first time, hesitated, Ulrek gently pulled on the tendrils of the Red Zeppelin.

『Guuuuu…』

The Red Zeppelin began to lower its altitude gradually. Alexander and Fernand swallowed dryly.

“If it were like last time, we would soon crash into it.”

“Their barrier contains tremendous repellent energy. If something goes wrong, we could all melt.”

“Stop scaring us, Fernand! Alexander!”

They had to turn back near this area sometime before. Laputa’s barrier didn’t just block like that of Saur Land.

“If Lee Jiwon hadn’t tested the skill first that time, we—ugh, I don’t even want to think about it.”

So capable was the barrier in preventing entry and punishing any unwarranted intrusion, that without Bailephus and Lee Jiwon, Alexander and Fernand might have been done for.

As Fernand caused a stir, Alexander’s expression changed slightly.

“Lee Jiwon…”

Where could the Rank 2 be now?

He was the one who wanted to enter Laputa more than anyone. What could he be doing now?

“I’ve won.”

Alexander had that thought and smiled.

“We’re entering!”

With Ulrek’s shout, the massive Red Zeppelin began to vanish.

To be precise, as they entered Laputa’s barrier, they became invisible from the outside.

“Wow—! Wait a minute! If possible—achievements—”

Even in that moment, Leeha was worried about achievements.

───────────────!

As they passed through the barrier, a burst of light caused everyone to shut their eyes.

When they reopened them, what lay before them was no longer just a floating island.

“I get why they said the dinosaurs of Saur Land were trained here.”

“This isn’t just ruins… Well, it does look like ruins but—”

It wasn’t as luxuriously adorned as the cities of Saur Land.

It wasn’t blindingly splendid, but instead, boasted a noble magnificence that hadn’t faded with time, filling the island.

“Isn’t a city made of gold quite tacky?”

What the users had thought was ‘land’, reflecting the light, was entirely gold.

And a great quantity of it, covering almost every visible part of the surface.

Considering the exchange value between Middle Earth’s gold coins and real-world currency, just scraping off a little of this land could allow someone to live comfortably.

“They say it embodies the power of gods, but what they meant was gold—”

“Don’t compare material value to the power of gods, human Ha Leeha.”

“Ah, yes? Of course. It’s not because of that.”

Leeha, trying to express his admiration, quickly closed his mouth at Ulrek’s reprimand. Widening his eyes, he swiftly scanned the surroundings.

“Anyone get achievements?”

The users looked at each other. No one responded.

Whether they had actually gained an achievement or not, no one would state the ‘truth’ at this point.

So, what was left?

Leeha quickly raised the Black Bass.
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“Ulrek-nim! Please watch, this isn’t an attack!”

“Hm? What―”

“Jellypong, release your tendrils!”

『Myeongmyeong!』

Jellypong’s tendrils intertwined with the Red Zeppelin’s tendrils.

Realizing what Leeha intended, users hurriedly began to release their own tendrils.

Since the Red Zeppelin was already in a gentle descent, searching for a place to land, the distance to the ground wasn’t very far.

“Ugh, damn it! I’m going first―”

“No, I’ll go first!”

“Ahaha! You can’t get there faster than me!”

Given the users’ skill levels, falling after releasing the tendrils might result in some damage, but they could survive the height.

However, Leeha had something even faster than free-falling.

“〈GHOST IN THE SHELL〉!”

Boom────────…!

By the time the gunfire started echoing, Leeha’s body had already touched the ground.

Faster than the Red Zeppelin, a user landed on Laputa.

An entry ticket to Laputa was an S rank achievement.

What kind of achievement could he earn upon entering Laputa? Even at the lowest, it was speculated to be an S rank or higher.

‘Well, I hope it’s a clean S+ rank━’

Leeha couldn’t contain his excitement. And as the excitement grew too intense, he realized he had no other thoughts.


Fanfare rang in Leeha’s head. Ba-bam—!

Congratulations!

The first R- rank achievement in Middle Earth has been unlocked.

『Ha Leeha, White Reaper, lv. 263, from the nation of Fibiel』

Other users, please strive to keep up!

“What?”

“Hm?”

“… What is this?”

A new achievement rank that was previously unknown in Middle Earth.

Barely two minutes after the announcement that Leeha had unlocked the achievement, communities around the world exploded.

* * *

“R-minus?”

“Is there an R- rank?”

“This doesn’t make any sense…”

The users releasing their tendrils simultaneously paused as if on cue.

Until the Red Zeppelin safely landed and released its tendrils, they couldn’t move.

What exactly was R- rank?

Wasn’t S+ rank the peak?

Since S+ rank had appeared with much fanfare through Kijung, r-rank couldn’t be lower than S+.

‘What is this?’


Leeha himself was as baffled as the surrounding users. R- rank?

At best, he had been thinking about S rank, and maybe, with some luck, an S+ rank achievement that would greatly boost his stats.

But R- rank?

“What are you all doing? Human Ha Leeha, you’ve arrived at the Laputa you and your group have been so curious about; is that your way of expressing your joy? Humans are hard to understand.”

Ulrek shook his head in confusion as he walked out, releasing the Red Zeppelin’s tendrils. The scene around truly was enough to startle the users.

Not just the yellow-gilded ground but also remnants resembling ruined building columns, traces of old roads, and deep craters demonstrated the overall atmosphere of the place.

“Alright, alright! Ahem, as curious as I am! Well, we’ve reached Laputa, so shouldn’t we get to work? Let’s move!”

Leeha quickly blocked out the distracting whispers in his mind and looked away from the surrounding users.

As he clapped awkwardly and began to walk with exaggerated steps, the other users found it hard to say anything.

What was the name of the achievement?

What was the content of the achievement?

How powerful was the R- rank?

There were mountains of questions he wanted to ask, but what use would it be to rush him?

“Y-yes. There’s quite a bit of fatigue… First, an investigation—Oh! Ulrek-nim-nim, just how long can we stay here?”

Fernand, agreeing with Leeha’s words, asked Ulrek-nim.

Laputa wasn’t something you could just see in an hour or two. Staying for several days was hardly feasible either, given how long it had been since they logged out.

The guide leading the party was still considering the condition of the entire group.

“Hmm, our purpose this time is not for research. You can stay here until your objective is complete.”

“What? Really?”

“… However, I’d prefer it if you didn’t stay more than ten days. We need to return for our own research as well.”


Although he didn’t mention Pyrot-Cocri’s bones directly, Fernand was well aware of their interests.

And if they had ten days?

Luger and Kidd exchanged glances.

Alexander was already wrapping his spear with cloth.

“We can take a hefty rest for five days… then regroup, right?”

Fernand asked them for their opinion. Five days in Middle Earth’s time was 24 hours in reality.

It meant their suggestion was to take a full day off and log in again.

“We could just push on, but if you all are tired, so be it.”

“Exactly what I wanted to say. Hmph, it’s just starting, and the excitement’s already fading.”

As Leeha shrugged his shoulders, Luger opened his mouth not wanting to be outdone.

Seeing Fernand’s troubled expression, kidd pulled his hat down and walked into a nearby alley.

“… Then, just two of you need to stay and investigate. I’m off.”

Not wanting to show the logout scene in front of the NPCs, Alexander and Bailephus also began preparing to disband as they found a suitable spot.

With that, Leeha and Luger didn’t have time to be stubborn either.

“Th-then, sir! We’ll just—check the surroundings for a bit. Let’s take about five days of personal time.”

“Hmm? Alright, understood.”

As Leeha hastily reported to Browless, Luger also slowly made his move.

The users exchanged farewells.

The first thing the group did upon finally arriving at Laputa was log out.

“You know it’s your loss if you’re late, right? Make sure everyone logs in on time!”

“Alright, let’s meet again in five days!”

Leeha quickly pressed the system window.

He couldn’t settle his mind due to the appearance of the R- rank achievement and the ensuing excitement.

‘Haha, great. First, let’s search the internet—Hmm?’

As Leeha pressed the logout button, something caught his eye. Ulrek-nim, Bailephus, and Browless were examining parts of the Laputa ruins.

But another one?

The other dinosaur, who had been eager and excited for research as it was his first time, was nowhere to be seen.

‘Huh? Where did GM go? Did he already head off for research?’

The dinosaur had been missing since the moment they got off the Red Zeppelin. But what could be done about it now?

Ultimately, Leeha logged out as well.

* * *

〈Title: Now the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 overwhelming the Demon King’s Army, lol〉

〈Title: -re: lol, it finally seems unbalanced〉

〈Title: Is there a job called the White Reaper? What is that?〉

〈Title: Ridiculous, level 263, look at that leveling speed, lol〉

〈Title: -re: Hangs out with Master Kay, it’s awesome〉

〈Title: -re-re: Master Kay was level 288 last time, ridiculously fast〉

〈Title: R- rank achievement = Mythical item, agree?〉

〈Title: -re: Is there even such a thing as mythical grade?〉

〈Title: -re-re: Thought legendary was the highest. Never heard of mythical grade before〉

〈Title: Where to Attain R- rank Achievements?〉

“Pff… Heh heh heh.”

Leeha couldn’t contain his laughter.

Although he had been worn out from playing for a longer time than when he went to the Dragon King’s Palace, he couldn’t easily fall asleep.

Initially, he just wanted to look up the R- rank achievement, but he got hooked on the “community’s reaction” and couldn’t drag himself away from the computer.

‘There’s nothing. It seems I am indeed the first.’

In both the largest Korean community and internationally famous portals, there was no information about R- rank.

At this point, where achievements up to S+ grade had been disclosed, he wondered what could come next if the world of Middle Earth expanded.

‘Considering the game’s nature that uses Minus, Zero, and Plus, there were cautious speculations that SS or S++ grade, SSS rank, and the like might come next, but the prevailing idea was that anything beyond S+ grade just wouldn’t exist.’

Middle Earth, which emphasized balance in its universe, probably hadn’t created an element for inflation. If it did exist, it might come after the current Phase 3.

Of course, those thoughts were just what common users believed.

Users closer to the top level, especially those associated with quests like “Demon King’s Fragment” like Bluebeard, knew how harsh the game of Middle Earth really was.

‘The balance tilts towards the 〈Sacred Alliance〉? The world’s greatest balance? Nonsense… The ones maintaining that balance must be sweating bullets.’

Just a slight slip could tip the balance drastically.

If there hadn’t been a showdown between Bahamut and Bluebeard or if Kijung hadn’t intervened to disrupt Tiamat’s resurrection…?

‘No, before that… If I hadn’t discovered the Peklo City and managed to escape safely…’

If only the impeccable Pyrot-Cocri had awakened, the Demon King’s army would have ‘easily’ triumphed.

Leeha stared a little longer at the monitor screen.

The sudden appearance of the R- rank, the arrival of Laputa, the discovery and sealing of Pyrot-Cocri. What the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 sought was being achieved to some extent.

‘But… strictly speaking, this is just the beginning.’

They hadn’t captured Arcane Sniper nor could they draw aid from Saur Land.

To fend off their overwhelming firepower, a lot had to be unearthed within Laputa.

‘What could there be?’

To balance the still-tilted playing field between the Sacred Alliance and the Demon King’s army, what should be done and what could be done?

‘Was it fortunate that Kijung and Lee Jiwon managed to delay Tiamat’s resurrection? Come to think of it, what is that guy doing?’

Leeha briefly checked his smartphone.

Even when the R- rank achievement alarm went off, there was no whisper from Kijung.

If he were logged into the game, he definitely would have contacted him. So, it was likely he was asleep.

“Ah, forget it. I should sleep too.”

Leeha flopped onto his bed.

Had he checked his friends list before logging out, his thoughts might have been different.

* * *

“The words of the Exorcism Cardinal are…”

“Yes. Tiamat has fully awakened.”

Kijung nodded heavily. Many cardinals gathered in the Great Hall of the Vatican started murmuring.

It was a different atmosphere than when he would usually hold an audience in a private chamber.

This was likely because Kijung was not alone in standing before the Pope.

“Is that true? Can it be confirmed in the name of the dragon?”

“Yes.”

“Indeed.”

Two people answered the Pope’s question.

The silver dragon with flowing silver hair, Arzenmacht, and his partner, Ram Hwajung.

“So— in other words, here, Ram Hwajung is the partner of a dragon. She has the authority to communicate with the Leader of the Metal Dragons, Platinum Dragon Bahamut. And the metal dragon Bahamut—”

“Can sense that Tiamat has awakened… is that what you’re saying?”

“Yes, Your Holiness.”

Usually, it would be Leeha or Alexander, as dragon partners, who would come to report. However, the two dragon partners were currently in the Eastern part of the New Continent.

So, the only user left to report to the Pope was Ram Hwajung.

Ram Hwayeon had contacted Kijung, asking him to accompany her sister to the Vatican, considering it was too much for her to deliver the ‘proper information’ alone.

It wasn’t just because Kijung was Leeha’s cousin.

The news that the Holy Knight and Exorcism Cardinal, ‘Master Kay’, had returned alive from facing Bluebeard and Ghibrid had spread across the New Continent and all of Middle Earth.

Ram Hwayeon had recognized this, noting his trustworthiness, skill, and connection to ‘Tiamat’, and thus appointed Kijung as Ram Hwajung’s protector.

Ram Hwayeon’s judgment was almost spot on.

“Then, what should we do!?”
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“The Exorcism Cardinal has stated before! We prevented the resurrection of Tiamat, and the likelihood of such an event occurring in the future is very low!”

“I am beginning to doubt whether you have neglected your duty as a Holy Knight! How can the situation reverse so drastically before the ink of the last report has even dried?”

The one fault Kijung had was not having a clear grasp of his recent position.

The Cardinals on the Pope’s left side blamed Kijung unanimously.

It was as if Tiamat’s resurrection was entirely Kijung’s fault.

“How dare you say such a thing! If the Exorcism Cardinal hadn’t intervened, Tiamat would have fully resurrected!”

“That’s right! Even Bahamut, the king of Metal Dragons, acknowledged Tiamat’s resurrection but said that ‘something is incomplete’ about it!”

“Does your ‘side’ have any special strategy for condemning the Holy Knights?”

This time, the Cardinals on the Pope’s right side raised their voices.

Kijung hung his head.

Having acquired the first S+ rank achievement and gained the Pope’s infinite trust, Kijung had become a rising star in the power structure of Ezwen.

How much time had passed since Pope Urbano II ascended the throne after the death of the previous Pope?

Factions had started to reemerge within Ezwen, which they thought had been completely eradicated.

“When did the Papacy become divided into sides?”

“I’m merely trying to say that now isn’t the time to criticize the Holy Knight bringing us the most current on-field information—”

“The very same ‘current information’ that is throwing us into chaos! How can His Holiness trust someone who brings two conflicting reports? Isn’t that right, Your Holiness?”

The Cardinals on both the left and right stared at the Pope.

The Pope let out a light sigh.

“I understand. Since the judgment is a shared responsibility between all of us here, shouldn’t we first listen to the reports of the Exorcism Cardinal and the Dragon’s partner, cardinal Sergio?”

The Pope barely quelled the Cardinals’ heated debate.


Kijung felt a brief sense of relief but also an unavoidable sense of frustration.

‘Sigh, if only he could just be outright dismissed. But since this NPC is designed to be overly benevolent and pacifistic, that’s just not possible. Guess it’s only natural in a game, which sometimes feels harder than reality.’

A completely different political system from the previous Pope’s era.

Maybe it was intended to balance the enjoyment and challenge for users given Ezwen’s small territory and unique national power traits, yet for Kijung, it was unbearably tiresome.

With factions rising and falling every time the Pope changed, they had to live as priests while also ‘walking a tightrope’.

Kijung felt relieved that Raphaela belonged to Minis.

As the Pope’s gaze fell on her, Ram Hwajung suddenly spoke up.

“I don’t know.”

“May I ask what you mean by that, lady Ram Hwajung?”

“Tiamat. Complete.”

“Hmm… So it means we don’t know when Tiamat will be complete.”

The Pope tilted his head in curiosity and Argenmatt stepped forward.

“Yes, Ahlo’s representative. The Lord has sensed Tiamat’s incompleteness, but that’s all.”

“Is there any way we can understand what those incomplete elements are and how we can utilize them to eliminate Tiamat?”

The Pope cautiously asked. Argenmatt shook his head.

“We won’t know until we see her in person. However, the fact that the continent’s chromatic dragons are rampaging is evidence that it is not a small issue. Fortunately, they haven’t found Tiamat yet. If they do, the incomplete element may be resolved…”

“So, we must eliminate Tiamat before then.”

“Exactly.”

It was one of the recent complaints among Minis users.

Posts about how difficult it had become to raid adult dragons recently flooded the community.


Looking back, Kijung realized it was all linked to ‘Tiamat’s resurrection.’

The Pope remained silent for a moment, contemplating Argenmatt’s words, then began to speak with his thoughts sorted.

“Exorcism Cardinal, do we have a way to kill Tiamat?”

“I’m sorry, but I have not thought of one yet.”

Kijung shook his head immediately, causing the cardinals lined up on the left to start criticizing him at once.

Of course, Kijung paid them no mind at all.

When he heard this story from Ram Hwayeon, it wasn’t that he had no thoughts at all. However, the information he received was only related to the incident and lacked concrete solutions, making it hard for him to come up with anything useful.

‘This will be a completely different kind of quest compared to the assassination of Pyrot-Cocri’s clone.’

In the case of Pyrot-Cocri’s clone assassination, it was carried out in secret so the enemy wouldn’t notice. This time, though, it was an event orchestrated by Ghibrid and Bluebeard themselves.

In other words, they had to assume that ‘the enemy’, including Chiyou, already knew about this.

Simply put… unlike last time, they would have to infiltrate the enemy’s lair to complete this quest.

Kijung opened his friends’ window. He smiled as he looked at someone’s ID.

‘R- rank… still amazing as ever. But if he achieved such a feat, he would be coming back soon, right, hyung?’

Leeha’s return signified the return of top users like Alexander.

In that case? If they could factor in the various variables he was considering, then…

“Hey hey, guild master, we’ve found the guy. What should we do?”

“Oh, already? Okay! Then just wait a bit longer! I’ll come over as soon as I finish things here.”

Kijung made eye contact with Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht before looking at the Pope.

“But we must do it.”

At Kijung’s words, the uproar amongst the cardinals grew even louder.


“Speaking about the fate of the Principality of Ezwen… no, this land, in such a gambling tone!”

“If you fail, the Demon King’s Fragments will run more rampant! Speaking so lightly is not the attitude expected of an Exorcism Cardinal!”

The cardinals on the right reacted so fiercely that even controlling them seemed impossible.

Kijung wondered anew.

Why had the Pope arranged a meeting where all the cardinals gathered after the Conclave? Why hadn’t he just received reports in private as usual, instead of setting up a situation ripe for chaos and conflict?

Pope Urban II nodded upon hearing Kijung’s response.

There was clearly only one reason for the Pope to have done all this.

“I fully agree with the Exorcism Cardinal. I trust him under any circumstances.”

The hall of the Ezwen Papacy fell silent as a mouse.

Without a single word of reproach for the divided cardinals, the Pope had entirely used his abilities to seal their lips.

* * *

Outside the Vatican, Kijung greeted Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht.

Ram Hwajung stared at Kijung and then asked.

“Leeha oppa.”

“Yes?”

“He needs to come back.”

“… Yes. He’ll come soon.”

“Yes. Hurry. Before the quest.”

As Ram Hwajung turned around, Arzenmacht immediately used a teleportation spell.

After both Ram Hwajung and the dragon disappeared, Kijung took out a crystal ball and fiddled with it.

The quest had not been officially assigned by the Pope yet.

With no information about Tiamat, it would be hard to create a simple eliminate-them kind of quest.

‘It won’t be easy to handle as a team quest, like last time.’

There was a possibility that it could be a quest universally applicable to all users, like the purification of the demonic base.

The crucial part was timing.

If the quest occurred first, users would start acting up.

No matter how many ordinary users gathered, it would certainly be difficult to inflict any significant damage on Tiamat.

‘In the worst case scenario….’

Users had a much higher chance of becoming assets for the enemy.

The enemy possessed Gibraid. Kijung believed that user forces might be entirely converted into enemy assets if they weren’t careful.

Even in a large-scale raid, the assault had to be completed in one go.

“Well then, first… we need to gather information. Should we check the whereabouts of the Chromatic Dragons too?”

Kijung activated the crystal ball.

In the forest of the Lope continent.

As a pale purple light flickered and the surroundings changed, what came into Kijung’s view was a Lizardia user.

“Kekeke, you said you’d come quickly. Our guild master is always late.”

While listening to Biyemi’s reproach, Kijung looked around.

“This, this is the fastest I could come! So—where is that person—”

“Surpriiiiiiise!”

“—Aaaaah!”

Kijung screamed as a Miyaw user suddenly leaped out from behind the fallen leaves.

How could someone much larger than a dog jump out from a pile barely enough to hide a puppy!

“Goodness, you scared me, Petyr!”

“Baaahahaha!”

“Kekekeke!”

Kijung barely managed to calm his startled heart while looking at Petyr and Biyemi.

“Jeez… at least your abilities are excellent.”

Due to a previous refusal during the Pyrot-Cocri case, Kijung harbored some resentment towards Petyr, but he understood there were reasons for it and couldn’t afford to be picky.

“Ahem, Petyr? How about doing some work with us?”

“Bahaha, work?! I was here to meet Nguyen temporarily, but I don’t want to work with you.”

“Ah, really? I heard you still aren’t the ‘Leader’ yet…”

At Kijung’s subtle comment, Petyr’s normally cheerful expression turned serious.

Biyemi was already aware of it.

The ‘Midnight Circus’ currently had a vacancy for the Leader position.

Petyr, the Vice-Leader, managed to keep the group going, but the distinctiveness of the former assassin group had significantly waned.

It wasn’t just because he was a user.

If there was a lack of administrative ability, an NPC could be appointed to assist.

In short, the reputation of the Midnight Circus had declined because the ‘Vice-Leader’ had limited authority.

“… If you’re begging to be killed, you don’t need to tell Nguyen about it. Baha!”

Petyr’s nails extended threateningly.

Although they were facing each other now, Kijung knew Petyr could strike from behind in an instant.

“It wasn’t meant to provoke. The Leader of the Midnight Circus has been turned into an undead by Pyrot-Cocri, right? Petyr, you need to kill him, but it’s difficult. If an undead Leader remains, you won’t progress either, will you?”

“…”

During the encounter with Pyrot-Cocri’s clone, Petyr had left the front line midway.

He did so to pursue the Leader of the Midnight Circus, now turned undead. However, the Leader’s position remained vacant.

What does this mean?

It meant Petyr hadn’t managed to dispose of the Leader.

The monster had significantly surpassed the level of a regular monster, retaining all abilities from life. As an undead, it couldn’t be killed by conventional attacks.

Kijung briefly met Petyr’s gaze before rummaging through his bag. He pulled out a very small bottle.

“Kekeke, what’s that? Artificial tears?”

“B-Biyemi! Don’t spoil the mood! Though Petyr already knows what it is.”

The bottle was thinner than an index finger and only about half its length, containing a minuscule amount of liquid. Though Biyemi joked, Petyr recognized it immediately.

“Baha! I see. So the Leader didn’t steal everything, after all.”

The reason Kijung sought out someone who had previously refused cooperation?

It was naturally because he had confidence.

“Yes, if you cooperate, I’ll give you a drop of this. ‘Holy Water Containing the Blood of Ahlo’.”
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Petyr looked reluctant, but his gaze was fixed on the bottle Kijung had brought.

Having fought against the undead Ringmaster, he was the one who needed this the most.

“Buhihihi! I finally get to play with Quidam again. Playtime is fun, playtime is good!”

“… I don’t want to play with you, though. Kekeke, but that’s what the guild master wants, right?”

Petyr tumbled and danced near Biyemi.

Biyemi shook his head, but he already anticipated what his guild master was thinking.

“Yes. Biyemi and Petyr, you need to investigate the movements of the chromatic dragons. If you go to their lair, you will surely be able to gather some information.”

It wasn’t just about analyzing the movements of the dragons.

They needed a top-level stealth ability to extract every bit of information, including the conversations between dragons.

“Keke, it’s no different than asking us to steal a dragon egg.”

In a word, Biyemi gauged the difficulty of Kijung’s request. However, the corners of Lizardia’s mouth were raised in a smile.

His blood boiled as he, alongside Petyr, was once the strongest assassin.

* * *

“Wow… I slept for 21 hours. My bladder’s about to burst.”

Leeha scratched his belly and headed to the bathroom.

He had overestimated his insomnia, thinking he wouldn’t fall asleep. But as soon as he lay down, he slept straight for 21 hours. When he woke up, there were roughly two hours left until his scheduled meeting with his companions in Laputa.

‘Five days have passed in Middle Earth since then― what? Kijung hasn’t checked my messages?’

While scrolling through his smartphone, Leeha found that Kijung hadn’t read his message.

‘Did he log out? What’s he doing?’

If Kijung was online, he could simply log in and check.


Leeha tossed his smartphone aside and checked the internet again. There was no particularly notable information except for a few speculation posts about Laputa.

‘So some users have figured out about Laputa… Users are really quick to catch on.’

If a new R- rank area had appeared, it would have to be acquired from an unrevealed region, and the only possibility was Laputa.

Nodding at the reasonable speculation posts, Leeha thought, ‘Heh, but even if they know it exists, not everyone can get there.’

To enter Laputa, one needed to have the Saur Land entrance authorization first.

Even Elizabeth and Brown, who accompanied the Arcane Sniper, had been refused entry there. Who else could go there?

If Leeha hadn’t killed Toon, he wouldn’t have been able to enter himself.

Moreover, no additional entrance methods had been revealed since then.

‘Wait, thinking about it again… Toon is dead and gone. Assuming he won’t respawn as a quest monster― what does this mean? Is there no way to enter Saur Land now?’

What method could potential users use?

Would Toon respawn for them to kill him? Middle Earth wouldn’t allow such a thing.

‘This doesn’t make any sense. What method is there? It’s logical not to access such a balance-breaking area easily― but why did they even create such a place?’

At this point, the skill gap was too stark.

Why had the Saur Land already appeared, and to add Laputa to it?

Even if someone managed to get into Saur Land, they would need to provide something that already advanced civilizations like those in Laputa would find interesting.

‘Bones from Peklo City. In other words, the bones that constituted part of Pyrot-Cocri.’

What items could match that value?

‘… The main body, Pyrot-Cocri’s bones?’

Leeha couldn’t close his mouth in astonishment. Was that even possible at this point?

‘It’s ridiculous. Pyrot-Cocri, strictly speaking… hasn’t even awakened yet. Does that mean…’


After the storyline dealing with all the Demon King’s Fragments?

“Woah…”

Was the aerial island, only reachable from such a dinosaur country not starting from that country, supposed to mean this?

Leeha shook his head.

Right now, rather than unfounded speculation, what was important was to quickly log into Middle Earth.

“Quickly― huh? Mail… Ah.”

Just as he was about to log out from the internet, Leeha noticed a new email.

It was an email from a domain he had seen someday before. Although the subject wasn’t translated, Leeha could surmise the content of the email well enough.

“Hong Kong… it’s time to go. And in three days, no less—way too quick.”

The email from Jachung included an invitation to the wedding taking place in three days along with a voucher for the accommodation where Leeha would stay.

‘If it were in Seoul, I could just show up 30 minutes before the wedding to make an appearance, but Hong Kong… I need to leave at least a day in advance.’

Strictly speaking, there was only about a day left.

One day for traveling to Hong Kong and the wedding would take place the very next day.

Leeha touched his forehead. He realized anew that he was completely absorbed in Middle Earth.

“To hell with it, the world won’t stop turning without me. Let’s go, let’s go. Anyway, I should have about 5 to 6 days of leeway in Middle Earth time.”

If he handled many tasks during this session, it should be enough, right?

Leeha hurriedly ran to the Middle Earth access machine and lay down.

“Ughhhhh—!”

Feeling the familiar, yet still unaccustomed sensation of falling, Leeha stood upon the ground of Laputa.

“You’re here early!”


“Fernand-ssi, you arrived even earlier than me. Did you rest well?”

Fernand was already logged in and wandering around with a magnifying glass in hand. While exchanging simple greetings, both Kidd and Luger also completed their logins.

There were still over half a day left until the promised time in Middle Earth, yet everyone logged in early to gather information.

“Did you find anything, human compass?”

“Would it kill you to call me Fernand?”

“Understood, human compass.”

“Sigh… Anyway… Just a bit further and something noticeable comes into view.”

Grumbling, Fernand pointed in one direction in response to Luger’s question. Leeha, Kidd, and Luger all gazed toward that direction.

Amidst the surrounding ruins and desolate landscape, there was one object that remained intact.

“… A door?”

“Is that really a door?”

“What’s that supposed to be? There’s no wall, nothing, just a door standing alone?”

Was there a building here in the past?

While there was a door, there was no wall to support it. It was literally a door standing alone amidst the desolate ruins.

Just as Fernand said, it was indeed eye-catching.

As Leeha, Kidd, and Luger stared blankly at it, a head suddenly popped out between them.

“We call that the ‘Stairway to Heaven’.”

“Whoa! GM-nim?”

“Wh-What!”

“Jeez, I nearly shot you!”

The GM gave an awkward smile and looked at the Three Musketeers, who were hastily readying for battle.

Fernand also stared at him with wide eyes.

It wasn’t just the sudden appearance that surprised them.

“GM-nim, do you know about this? You said it’s your first time in Laputa…”

“Yes. But I know about it.”

The GM nodded and surveyed the surroundings.

Ulrek and Browless were nowhere to be found, and Bailephus was waiting for Alexander to log in.

He then turned back to the Three Musketeers and Fernand and opened his mouth.

“Isn’t it interesting?”

“Huh? What is?”

Asked Fernand, and the GM suddenly laughed.

“Red Zeppelin and ‘Stairway to Heaven.’ Haha! Anyway, you have to appreciate the nonsense from the development team.”

The GM was now chuckling heartily. But the users in front of him were bewildered.

And they were astonished.

Leeha finally understood why he always felt a bit uneasy with the GM’s presence.

The GM recognized the name Red Zeppelin, which existed only in reality as a 1970s rock band.

And now, here was a door with the same name as Red Zeppelin’s song ‘Stairway to Heaven.’

Common names might coincide, so it wouldn’t be strange even if they overlapped.

The issue was that both Red Zeppelin and ‘Stairway to Heaven’ were used simultaneously, and the NPC laughed while referring to it.

Moreover, what did he mean by ‘development team’?

“…… No way……”

“Th-that’s absurd. You, you, you are―”

“…… I see. So that’s why your name was that.”

Leeha, Luger, and Kidd had realized his identity. Fernand drove the final nail into the coffin.

“Are you……the Administrator?”

“Whew, it’s tough to talk where there are no NPCs. It’s really different from seeing it from the outside. Nice to meet you. I’m the GM.”

GM = Game Master.

An abbreviation that stands for an administrator of an online game!

For the first time, the administrator who had never interfered with Middle Earth’s flow was now standing in front of Leeha.

‘No wonder……it looked strange no matter how I saw it!’

Leeha quickly scanned the dinosaur in front of him.

When the Red Zeppelin was attacked, Ulrek had used magic to protect it. However, he did not show any reaction at that time.

Back then, Leeha vaguely thought it might be due to issues of rank or limitations in activity range, but no matter how he thought about it, it didn’t quite make sense.

Each entity possessed combat power comparable to an Ancient Dragon.

The reason they had to remain defenseless.

‘Because they are in a position where they must not intervene directly.’

As his assumptions turned into reality, it struck him with fresh shock.

Just like Leeha’s mind grew complicated, Fernand blinked and stuttered, and Luger looked as if a thief was caught red-handed, visibly flustered.

“How― No, why? How―”

“The, the Administrator! What’s going on? Did we do something wrong or……?”

The GM just smiled.

Kidd also hesitated and took two steps back.

“Are you here to impose sanctions? We have not done anything that violates Middle Earth’s rules.”

The users knew about ‘the cases where an Administrator intervenes in the game.’

The presence of a Game Master usually hinted at an issue that needed addressing and solving, which naturally caused tension.

But the GM, looking rather embarrassed, waved his hands.

“What? Sanctions? No, no way. If that were the case, I wouldn’t appear like this. To be precise, this time, I just have something to tell you. Oh, let’s move over there first, shall we?”

The GM pointed to the door that Fernand had found and began to walk.

“But! Alexander hasn’t logged in yet!”

Leeha suggested, but the GM seemed unbothered.

“Hmm…… It’s no problem. The matter I need to discuss concerns you all anyway.”

Though the GM said ‘you all’, his eyes were firmly fixed on one person.

That person was none other than Leeha.

Kidd, Luger, and Fernand also felt the GM’s gaze.

The Three Musketeers and Fernand began to follow the GM, not understanding the situation.

Finally, as the shock wore off a bit, Fernand, who had been fidgeting, quickly moved next to the GM and asked.

“Excuse me, GM-nim. What happened to Saur Land?”

“Huh? What do you mean?”

“Aside from Kaztor― Um, as you might know from watching my actions, no matter which store or NPC I talked to, there was no chance to receive a quest. If it were an ordinary city or village, there would definitely be some place giving out quests……”

Fernand had been running around tirelessly even when Kyle was being treated.

It was, of course, an effort to build familiarity within Saur Land, as he knew that increasing familiarity to a certain level would lead to quests from the corresponding NPC.

However, Fernand had obtained nothing.

While gripping Ulrek, he barely managed to extract a clue about ＜Laputa＞. But even this was not in the form of a quest, only a passing conversation that might have ended there if it were not for Leeha.

Hearing Fernand’s question, the GM laughed.

“Haha, it can’t be helped. Saur Land, what a bizarre name― In any case, most of the dinosaurs there are not actual NPCs. We only placed a few in the areas where you guys walk around.”

“…… What?”

“Since I have to explain it anyway, let’s just say it now. Spending a day in reality earns five days in Middle Earth. Efficiency at work, you know? Since we developed this game, it’s obviously more efficient for us to work inside it.”

The GM said brightly, winking.

The Three Musketeers’ jaws dropped in shock, much like Fernand’s.

“W-wait a minute. So you’re saying－”

“…… Most of the dinosaurs in there were－”

“G-Goople Plus－ Goople Plus employees?!”

Luger jumped up in shock.
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It was because, as he roamed around during his free time, he recalled the ‘all sorts of things’ they did to curry favor with the NPCs, causing his face to flush.

“Yes. Although there are some special NPCs like the king and Ulrek, most of them were our staff. That’s why the policy of ‘Saur Land does not interfere externally’ was set. Oh, did you like the coffee at that cafe? I’m really fond of it too.”

Leeha, Kidd, and Fernand exchanged glances.

The dinosaurs sipping coffee, reading newspapers, and chatting at the cafe. Dinosaurs discussing stocks and stock prices.

It wasn’t that the dinosaurs were mimicking modern civilized society.

Those dinosaurs were real humans, and rather than mimicking modern civilized society, they were literally engaging in work and rest simultaneously.

‘It wasn’t just a bonus stage—it was the real thing.’

A place protected by a barrier, isolated from the story and inaccessible to anyone.

Suddenly, something struck Leeha.

It was true that it was isolated from the story. Judging by the current flow, Saur Land was a place that could either exist or not—it hardly mattered.

Except for one single entity perfectly linked to the current story.

“Oh, ah! What about Toon? What would have happened if Toon had made it here safely?”

Leeha asked urgently.

Toon was a dinosaur from Saur Land.

Wasn’t he the connecting link between Saur Land and the outside world? So, fundamentally, it couldn’t be entirely irrelevant?

“Haaa…”

The GM, who had stopped in front of a door titled “Stairway to Heaven”, looked at Leeha.

The cheerful face that had been laughing a moment ago was gone.

“… That’s why I had to reveal my identity.”

“What?”


“The storyline… is progressing too fast. The balance has been severely disrupted.”

It was the face of a team member, agonizing over being unable to control the main stream that determined the game’s success.

* * *

The GM was staring openly at the users.

A face filled with dissatisfaction, he soon released the tension with a deep sigh.

“Phew—! Ha Leeha-ssi, the Three Musketeers here, and Fernand-ssi the Pioneer were our key monitoring targets. Because you all poked around so much.”

“Did… did I do something wrong?”

Luger asked nervously, but the GM nodded without changing his expression.

“You did, Luger-ssi. You got greedy, and Le awakened too quickly. Although, thankfully, it wasn’t too different from our predictions. But compared to what I am about to say next—”

The GM then turned to Leeha.

“Chiyou… her position is a big headache. We had data predicting the number and strength of users who would join the Demon King’s army, led by figures like the Necromancer Faust and combat-centric users such as Igor, warlocks, and Sorcerers. It was supposed to go that way. Even after thousands of simulations, the result was the same.”

The GM sighed again.

Everyone present knew how off the GM’s ‘predictions’ were from reality.

Because of Chiyou, members of groups unrelated to the hidden faction like Shinobigumi and Yamato were lingering in a third territory, with one foot on both sides. Even heroes’ descendants like Pyro had switched sides.

And the one responsible for this was Chiyou.

“The biggest problem is Chiyou herself. It would be better if she stayed under Bluebeard’s command, but that doesn’t seem to be the case. Even top-grade AIs can’t handle her.”

“Isn’t that a good thing? Originally, Middle Earth is a game without the admins’ interference. Isn’t it a world created by the users themselves?”

Kidd asked while listening to the complaints about Chiyou.

The GM nodded subtly.

“To some extent, yes… but as you know, there are limits to that too. Even so, the world setting needs to be maintained, right? To prevent users from leaving, it’s crucial to maintain a balance between new and old users while keeping a stable and moderate tension. From the company’s perspective, it’s the industry leader, but it also has to manage market share. And we must consider the user perspective, company revenue, and broader factors like stock prices. Influential shareholders also have considerable sway.”


“That’s quite a realistic answer.”

Watching the GM mention even the stock prices of Gupul, the company that created Middle Earth, Leeha realized anew.

It was indeed a game made by the users’ hands.

However, what if due to users’ intervention, the Demon King’s army wins, causing all the kingdoms of the Lope continent to fall into ruin?

‘Users would leave, and the game might collapse.’

The downfall of the game “Middle Earth” was directly related to the stock price plummet of the company Goople. As an employee of that company, it was a position where they had to protect the company.

Conversely, it meant that the GM did not want the Demon King’s army to win.

“It’s a bit difficult to say this… but you can impose sanctions or apply a balance patch on the Demon King’s Fragments, can’t you?”

Fernand asked cautiously, but the GM shook his head.

“We can’t impose sanctions on individuals. It’s against company policy, and more importantly, it would negatively impact the entirety of Middle Earth.”

“Well, that’s true.”

Sanctioning Chiyou could create the impression that any user could be penalized just for playing well.

That would surely leave a greater shock on Middle Earth than even losing the Gude continent to the Demon King’s army.

“We can’t apply balance patches to the Demon King’s Fragments either.”

The GM quickly shifted topics while waving a hand.

But from that brief statement, Leeha could tell how deeply Goople had investigated Chiyou.

“You know that Middle Earth is a game run by AI, right? The reason we’ve never had regular maintenance is precisely because of that. Even our development team can’t make mid-term corrections to in-game data. The moment we input modification codes, the entire game would stop. There would be chaos.”

“… What?”

“They praised the genius developer too much. It’s because the game runs purely by users’ hands… it’s much harder than it sounds. From the operations team’s perspective, it’s a nightmare. Ah, this is just my personal gripe.”

The GM laughed awkwardly, seemingly embarrassed by his own words.


‘The father of all virtual reality games. That person.’

Leeha had heard rumors about the chief developer of Middle Earth as well.

He was someone who had more interviews than even the CEO of Goople.

‘He made it inherently impossible to modify the game, having such a personality. So stealth patches or secret updates, as mentioned in the community, are entirely out of the question.’

It meant that instead of arbitrary interventions, the AI of Middle Earth would autonomously judge and apply patches.

The chief developer, fearing that human greed or self-interest would ruin the game, took extreme measures that ended up causing difficulties for Goople’s operations team.

“In any case… it’s not your fault, but—now that it’s come to this, you must win.”

“Of course, it’s not our fault! Ah, triggering Bluebeard too early was indeed an issue.”

Listening to Leeha’s words, Luger glared at Leeha. Luger felt pricked momentarily, but the GM did not look at him.

The individual who primarily received the GM’s attention from the beginning was only one.

“No. If we have to point out someone, it’s Ha Leeha’s fault.”

It was a blatant accusation.

* * *

“… What? Me? Why me?”

“The first reason is that you killed Toon. No, to be precise, it wasn’t the killing itself that was the problem. Toon should not have left for Saur Land at that point, according to our planned flow.”

Did this mean that causing Toon to move was a more significant issue than killing him?

“Was that… because of me?”

Leeha knew that Toon had left to seek help from Saur Land, but he hadn’t realized the cause.

Why did Toon move?

“After placing the ‘Divine Staff’, the Sanctification should not have happened so quickly. Because it happened too easily… in fact, from that point, a war of attrition was supposed to raise the overall level of users.”

“Ah!?”

The battle to activate the Divine Staff.

The total war, including the fight against Lark, hurried Toon and Bluebeard. To give Toon a meaning of punishment for repeated failures, Bluebeard sent Toon away.

Far too early.

Of course, what made it possible was Leeha’s incredible sniping.

“Tsk, it started to shake from back then, but the second reason is more crucial.”

“The second reason? Did I do something else wrong?”

“It’s not a wrongdoing. ‘Shimo’ and sniper duels… we didn’t expect a user to win so quickly.”

“…’The White Reaper’.”

Listening to Leeha’s sigh-laden words, the GM nodded sympathetically.

* * *

“The current storyline, according to our data, was set up to be clearable only when there were at least 500 users with a second job advancement. Originally, Kaztor should have moved around that time. However, the discovery of Peklo City and the clear of ‘the White Reaper’ sped everything up too quickly.”

Leeha’s second job advancement as the White Reaper.

By clearing it, the locked terrain of Shazrashian opened, revealing the hidden Peklo City within it. Considering how much trouble this caused, one could understand the GM’s sigh.

“The trigger for the third Demon King’s Fragment and the actions of NPCs related to 《Arcane Sniper》 was ‘the White Reaper’. Clearing that… I thought it would take at least a year even if done quickly. But in-game time, it’s only been 5 years, 5 years! I never expected to witness such a crazy sniper battle—well, this is also part of the game, but…”

The GM shrugged their shoulders with a regretful face.

Both Kidd and Luger were looking at Leeha. They quickly grasped the subtle nuances mixed in the GM’s words.

“You mean it was a different kind of second job advancement compared to Desperado and Cannoneer.”

“And… it was related to that damn Arcane Sniper? Ha Leeha, did you have other information? Was that ‘laser’ thing a skill related to Arcane Sniper?”

Kidd and Luger’s questions were sharp, but Leeha pouted his lips and did not answer.

“Since it’s brought up! What exactly is Arcane Sniper? No matter how much I think about it, what role does it have in the game Middle Earth—”

“As a GM, I can’t tell you that. I’m here to raise your awareness based on internal opinions. To be honest, I didn’t want to appear like this. I was hoping to just wander around and return to Saur Land.”

Looking at his face, Leeha had other thoughts.

The GM’s words seemed to admit that the world of Middle Earth was in serious crisis.

Why did he need to say such things?

What were the biggest factors that made him move, even though he didn’t want to reveal his identity?

It was not because of Leeha. Not because of Luger. Not because of Fernand either.

“… Was it because of what happened to 《Arcane Sniper》 before reaching Laputa?”

At Kidd’s words, the GM’s expression grew somber.

They hadn’t secured Arcane Sniper.

“That’s correct. And the fact that Chiyou took him is the biggest issue.”

His words implied that he already knew what Chiyou was going to do, causing Leeha to feel uneasy.

But before Leeha could speak, the GM reached out his arm first.

“You have to open it. As soon as possible. This alone is a huge problem, but… I couldn’t think of any other way.”

He pointed to a doorway named 《Stairway to Heaven》.

The users swallowed their dry saliva and looked at the door as if enchanted.

Seeing the users, the GM gave a faint smile.

“Just as you showed us gameplay beyond our expectations, make our current worries a mere illusion. Make the predictive data of our operation team become worthless scraps.”

Make the predictive data become worthless scraps.

This indicated that, according to current data, the defeat probability of the ‘Sacred Alliance’ was higher.

Leeha understood the implication and had to ask.

“Can we… do it?”

Listening to the careful question, the GM thought for a moment.

The first thing that came to his mind was, ‘It’s impossible.’ He had always predicted and controlled the flow based on data. But then a different kind of data came to mind—operation team-wide astonishment caused by a user’s gameplay.

“As a level 5 user, you took down a Black Angus in one shot—we all thought it was impossible.”

“Uh, what?”

“I’ve been watching since then. You can do it.”

He was the ‘assigned GM’ who had been monitoring Leeha since his level was barely 10.

Leeha, hit by this revelation, couldn’t respond at all.

“Then, I’ll leave it to you, everyone. ‘Middle Earth’ is watching over you.”

After reciting a phrase from a major achievement, the GM disappeared. Right after the dinosaur disappeared, Alexander logged in.
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“Ultimately, it seems we didn’t find out much.”

“Argh, if Saur Land was a kind of bonus stage, I wanted to ask more about what Laputa signified…”

“Damn it, more importantly, your R- rank achievement! That’s what needed addressing!”

Even though Kidd, Leeha, and Luger belatedly grumbled, the GM had already disappeared.

There were countless things they wanted to ask the all-knowing GM. Though, even if they did ask, proper answers might not have been given.

“Damn, it’s regretful… but that’s Middle Earth for you.”

A game crafted by its users. What more could one want from a fully automated game that even the development team couldn’t patch midway?

Realizing that even the administrator could do nothing was a significant gain.

“Leeha, Luger, Kidd! Everyone, gather now!”

Browless called out to the players who were huddled together.

It was time to begin the main exploration of Laputa as Alexander had appeared.

However, those who had already encountered the GM couldn’t easily sort out their feelings.

The GM had said he couldn’t intervene directly and wouldn’t engage in partial actions by providing information or aid to specific players.

“But… even just appearing and speaking itself—”

“Is an immense help.”

“Damn dinosaur, it doesn’t even accept whispers. Might as well have given outright instructions!”

Even during this, Luger tried to whisper to the dinosaur named ‘GM’.

Of course, it was to no avail.

The Three Musketeers’ eyes were fixated on one spot.

And Fernand was already gazing at it too.


“Regardless of Laputa’s significance, the most important thing here is… this.”

Perhaps it was to prevent them from wasting time exploring Laputa. Hearing Fernand’s words, Leeha nodded.

The significance of Laputa, the difference between it and Saur Land, a de facto bonus stage and former workplace of the Guple staff—none of that mattered now, did it?

They had essentially identified the most crucial point in Laputa.

“The GM explicitly mentioned it… that alone exponentially increases its importance.”

“Moreover, they even brought up 《Arcane Sniper》 and highlighted its counterforce. In other words,”

“The ‘Power of God’.”

Luger interrupted what Kidd was about to say.

Listening to his words, Leeha nodded.

Assuming Laputa had no other hidden meaning, excluding piles of gold and jewels, its presence in Middle Earth’s story implied that the true essence of Laputa was this.

‘The Power of God, also known as the White Rose. There’s a way to acquire it. The likelihood is high.’

Losing Arcane Sniper to Chiyou had led to this once-in-a-lifetime opportunity.

Had Kyle still been here, even if he discovered the gate named ‘Stairway to Heaven’, he wouldn’t have guessed its incredible significance.

“Life’s unpredictable, isn’t it?”

“Nothing is certain yet. We only know its name, not how to open it.”

As soon as Kidd finished speaking, Luger pulled the doorknob. Without a hint of rattling, the doorknob remained unwavering.

“What the!? It feels like pulling a wall!”

Grunting, he tried pulling harder and even struck the doorknob with the muzzle of the Cobalt Blue Python, but nothing changed.

That’s when light flickered from the trigger part of the Cobalt Blue Python.

“What? What is that?”


“Hmm?”

Leeha and Kidd didn’t miss it.

“What, what was it? Come on! Let’s get it done, director!”

Luger abruptly stopped what he was doing and turned around. He began running toward the direction where Browless was.

Kidd frowned at Luger’s sudden bizarre behavior. Leeha had seen such a light before.

No, Luger had already given enough hints with his own words.

‘When he fired the rail gun… right. He said ‘he hates losing more than death’, referring to the python—! Damn it, Luger!?’

Leeha felt elated but also had mixed emotions.

Was this something to be happy about?

Kidd felt the same. He glanced at Luger running away and Leeha’s subtle expression while adjusting his waistband.

* * *

“Focused on the ‘Stairway to Heaven’, have you? It seems you didn’t spend the last five days in vain.”

Ulrek nodded.

The Three Musketeers and Fernand had already informed Ulrek and Alexander which areas to concentrate their investigation on.

There was also an unspoken agreement not to mention the GM to Alexander, who believed Fernand’s exploits alone were key.

“Yes, indeed. Ulrek-nim, have you done any investigations in Saur Land as well?”

Nodding appropriately at Ulrek’s remark, which perceived logout status as ‘individual investigation time’, Leeha inquired.

Ulrek, gazing at the ‘Stairway to Heaven,’ responded.

“Human Ha Leeha, you asked about this before, didn’t you?”

“Yes?”


“Was it to prevent Laputa’s civilization and technology from leaking out that our nation closed itself off from the outside?”

“Oh, yes. That’s correct.”

In order to obtain a ticket to Laputa, Leeha had asked this while persuading Ulrek with Fernand.

At that moment, Ulrek had merely sipped his coffee without any response, but Leeha interpreted it as tacit agreement and did not press further.

‘Ah… wait. If he’s bringing this up now―’

Leeha realized why Ulrek mentioned it then.

It wasn’t something one could figure out easily.

It was information he could piece together from what the GM had said!

Was it that Saur Land declared isolation to prevent Laputa’s civilization from leaking out?

‘That wasn’t it!’

Ulrek tilted his head, seeing the shock in Leeha’s wide eyes.

“Indeed, you’re a smart human. Yes, the reason you’re guessing is correct.”

There was no reaching Laputa without passing through Saur Land.

Without awareness of the place called Saur Land, no one could even know of its existence.

In other words, as long as Saur Land remained isolated from the outside world, no one could reach Laputa.

What was the reason for going to such lengths to block it?

“This, this is it! To protect this― the existence known as the ‘Stairway to Heaven’! To prevent its existence from being known to the outside!”

“Correct.”

Ulrek agreed simply.

As Ulrek, the third prince of Saur Land, testified that Saur Land had shut itself off solely to protect ‘this,’ Kidd, Luger, and Fernand became even more convinced.

‘We can consider the probability to be over 90%.’

‘Heh heh… the power of a god.’

Here lay the power of a god.

It was almost certain by a very high probability.

“Hmm. So it’s not to prevent Laputa’s power from leaking out, but rather to protect Laputa itself. Fellow dragon, do you sense anything?”

“Not really. It doesn’t seem worthy of the grand name ‘Stairway to Heaven’.”

Alexander and Bailephus too were looking at the door from a distance.

Bailephus could sense mana and divine power, which was a concept set apart from mana.

Yet, the ancient gold dragon just shook his head.

Ulrek chuckled softly.

“Of course. That thing is perfectly sealed, so no energy can escape. If you’re curious, would you like to see it for yourself, dragon?”

“I’d appreciate the opportunity.”

Ulrek personally led Bailephus to the door.

Leeha and other humans followed them.

Alexander and Browless, seeing the ‘Stairway to Heaven’ for the first time, looked curious.

However, the users who had already heard the story from the GM focused more on the reactions of Ulrek and Bailephus than on the door.

“I still don’t sense anything. You said you’ve investigated this?”

“Indeed. Not just one or two years, but many. Every head of the Department of Creation Science has been through here, and even my father, the current king, has visited this place, only to conclude that this door can’t be opened.”

Like an adult giving a child the correct answer while they struggled over a problem, Ulrek was now teaching Bailephus based on his prior experiences.

But it wasn’t just an issue that could end with the statement “it can’t be opened.”

“It… it can’t be opened? Even in Saur Land?”

Wasn’t this the very door the GM had insisted must be opened?

Naturally, the clue should be within Saur Land.

Leeha’s reaction mirrored the expressions of Kidd, Luger, and Fernand exactly.

“As I said, our technology only derives from investigating the relics of Laputa. It stands to reason that our current technological science can’t open this.”

“B-but ― that’s… hm…”

Even though Saur Land only possessed modern technology for the convenience of the Goople employees, trying to explain this wouldn’t make sense to Ulrek.

“Speaking of which, where did that dinosaur, GM, go?”

Alexander suddenly remembered and asked Ulrek. Ulrek tilted his head in confusion.

“GM? Who’s that?”

“What? You don’t know GM?”

Ulrek had already forgotten about the GM’s existence.

Alexander, bewildered, glanced at Bailephus, who returned an expressionless ‘What are you looking at?’ face.

“W-what the heck? What’s going on?”

Alexander looked back and forth between the users.

Nobody easily opened their mouths. Leeha, without even time to enjoy Alexander’s confusion, asked Ulrek again.

“Even if it can’t be opened― then do you know how it can be opened?”

“Isn’t it obvious? You need the appropriate key.”

Ulrek pointed toward the ‘Stairway to Heaven.’

Alexander grabbed Luger and Fernand and asked, “What the hell is going on? Why doesn’t anyone know about a giant like GM?!”

But no one paid him any attention.

Everyone else, including Leeha, Kidd, Browless, and even Fernand, who had been captured by Alexander, was staring at a part of the door that Ulrek was pointing to.

“Engraving…? It looks like a carving—”

In the center of the door, there was a specific shape that was recessed inside.

Fernand shook his head as he observed the deeply carved part, which didn’t seem like an engraving.

“No, it’s a keyhole. It looks like we need to insert a key that fits this shape.”

“Yes, that’s what we thought too. We tried to create the shape using all possible minerals and materials available, but nothing worked. Even when we infused mana, it didn’t react.”

“Hmm… It means we might need an artifact-like item.”

Given the advanced technology of Saur Land, it would have considerable item replication power.

The fact that none of their crafted keys could unlock the door indicated that it was likely a very unique item, possibly one that only existed one or two times in Middle Earth.

“But what is this pattern? A bar that runs straight with… a circle on top, and— something protruding from both sides… Normally, a lock would just have a regular keyhole, right? Hmm, seems familiar though.”

Fernand mumbled as he touched the recessed part.

At that moment, Leeha shouted, “Aah!? Th—the key, that key! Hold on a sec! Fernand! Let me see that for a moment!”

Leeha pushed Fernand aside and quickly squatted down.

The pattern recessed into the door was certainly not common.

It wasn’t a typical shape where you insert a key, turn the cylinder to unlock the mechanism. This slot required something to be ‘inserted’ into it, and the shape was?

‘A protruding bottom part. This is the leg of the key. And the top part is the key head. The parts sticking out from the sides of the key head are… wings.’

“Do you know what this is? Kidd, do you know as well?”

“Well! I think I am familiar with the shape, but I can’t recall exactly.”

Fernand was the one who dug out the clue from his faint memory.

Luger and Kidd tilted their heads, unable to recall properly. Even Alexander and Bailephus could not figure it out further.

And it made sense.

“Yes, that’s it.”

“You know something, Ha Leeha.”

“Yes, I have… held this item before.”

Because Leeha was the only one who had ever held that item.

“What!?”

“No, how—where did you get that—”

“Ha Leeha! No way! Didn’t you say this was your first time in Laputa?”

The users were instantly flustered and started babbling.

Even Ulrek shook his head in disbelief, but Leeha was certain.

He had indeed acquired an item that matched the shape etched into the door.

‘Is that why GM targeted me?’

As far as Leeha knew, since that time, the item had never been transported outside. He murmured softly.

“Do you remember chasing Bluebeard on the continent of Lope? The quest where we had to actually kill Igor, Crowley, and Faust.”

“Well…, ah! The 〈Operation to Exterminate the Demon King’s Army〉, right?”

“Yes. Does anyone remember the item I received from His Holiness the former Pope during that time?”

Only Leeha, who was the leader of the extermination squad, received this item.

The item, given by Pope Gaio IV, was to ensure convenience and cooperation across the continent, symbolizing their mission to kill Bluebeard.

“Could it be…?”

“Yes. It’s exactly this shape, exactly like this.”

Leeha recalled the name and description of the item. He felt a sudden urge to laugh.

‘Indeed… there are no useless items in Middle Earth. A key that wasn’t used back then is being used now.’

Why was Ezwen Church so welcoming of the investigation into Laputa? They had probably anticipated this.

Middle Earth contained hints at many places.

Realizing or not realizing them made a significant difference.

“The item that can open the 〈Stairway to Heaven〉 is the 〈Key of Jannate〉.”

Leeha still remembered the description of the quite unique item.

〈The Key of Jannate〉

Effect: Buff while held – ‘Blessing of Ahlo’

Description: A gift given by Ahlo to his earthly representative. There are two conflicting theories: the 『Spiritual Symbol Theory』, which suggests it symbolizes opening the closed hearts of humans, and the 『Material Reality Theory』, which posits it as a necessary item to see the god’s physical form and access Upper Earth. The Great Pope Leorio XIII of the 77th epoch once left a will granting the treasures of the Pope to the one who resolves this conflict, but it remains unresolved.

Since they had already entered Laputa, there was no need to leave immediately.

At least for one day, Leeha and his group decided to spend time investigating to ensure there was nothing they missed.

And afterwards? The next destination?

There was little doubt about it. They would head to where the 〈Key of Jannate〉 was found.

The next destination was Ezwen Church.
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―Blaugrunn-ssi.

―Ha Leeha-nim, when exactly are you coming? I have so much to tell you, and―

―Ahem. Just listen for now. Between the ‘Quantum Sand that proves the Legend of God’ and the ‘Legendary Mineral imbued with God’s power,’ which one do you want?

―… What?

Quickly. I’ll bring one as a gift for you.

―Where are you right now?

Blaugrunn, who was about to rebuke, suddenly quietened, and Leeha laughed. It had already been so long since they had last seen each other. Despite that, the confused face of the boy seemed to appear vividly before Leeha’s eyes.

―Ever heard of the floating island, ‘Laputa’?

-You’ve gone up there? Laputa? That place? The one Bailephus mentioned?

– Tell me what you want as a souvenir. The mineral can be processed into a legendary sword or other metal items… As for this sand or powder, I have no idea what it is. They say it’s the ‘Mystical Powder that proves God’s existence paradoxically by being both present and absent, seen and unseen.’

―What is that?

– I don’t know either. It’s something related to Quantum Mechanics or Schrödinger’s cat.

– That one! I want that sand! That one!

Blaugrunn spoke in a voice that resembled a child trying to snatch a candy. Leeha barely contained his laughter and nodded.

– Okay, I’ll bring you that one.

– When? When are you coming back?

– The investigation of ‘Laputa’ is almost over, so I’ll be coming down within two days. Still, it will be over a week before I see your face again, so hang in there.

– Understood, Ha Leeha-nim!

– Keep up the good work!

– Yes, yes!

Leeha smiled contentedly, watching Blaugrunn respond to his little prank.

It had been just about twelve hours since they had learned from the GM about the importance of the ‘Stairway to Heaven’ and discovered through in-depth investigation by Ulrek and his party that the ‘Key of Jannate’ was the item that opened that very door. The group was scattered across various parts of ‘Laputa’, busy searching for any clues.

“I’m really tempted by all this gold. If possible, I’d love to peel it off and take it down.”

The creatures that once inhabited Laputa did not pave roads with stones. Instead, they indulged in the pinnacle of luxury by covering everything in gold, as if asphalting the area. Whenever Leeha scratched the road with the tip of his shoe, Ulrek would appear and glare at him, deterring any further attempts.

After all, it was not wise to offend someone who had the power to control access to Saur Land and Laputa.

‘I’ve searched all over, but there wasn’t anything particularly worth taking. Well, calling the legendary minerals “just” a souvenir seems a bit much.’

Perhaps it was akin to a gift given to those who managed to reach this place. Unlike the prohibition on disturbing the floor or ruins, Ulrek was lenient with the numerous resource items scattered around. However, they were not allowed to take everything, so Leeha and the other users were striving to find the best possible items they could carry.

Leeha had reasons to stay somewhat relaxed amidst the chaos. One reason was that the environment itself was not conducive to easily finding items. Another reason was the reward he had already acquired.

Upon returning from Laputa to Saur Land, there was the reward to be reaped from the Quest ‘Saur Land’s Commission,’ completed by taking down Kaztor.

‘Kyle’s treatment was merely an advance reward. Now that I’ve killed Kaztor, what could I receive…? Besides, even though the Arcane Sniper eventually fell into the enemy’s hands, I doubt they’ll completely ignore it.’


Even if Saur Land tried to play dumb, they would not take it lying down. Furthermore, there was one more significant element.

Perhaps the biggest gain from this trip to Laputa was the R- rank achievement!

『Achivement: Rediscovery of the Sealed Legend – The Sky Island, Laputa(R-)』

Incredible!

You discovered a forgotten place in Middle Earth, a mythological land whose name had faded even from legends. What is the Sky Island, a land where the power of God has melted into the ground, made of? How could it float? Who lived there in the past, and what happened to them? You were the first to unlock the key to all these secrets! Perhaps the Sky Island had been waiting for a human who could unravel its mysteries. Considering that their quantum barrier opened for you and those with you, this might indeed be the case.

Reward: 100 Stat Points

Permanent Access Permission to Laputa (entire party included)

(This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame)

For general achievements following the first three people, only the basic reward is given.

If there is a Hall of Fame for the first three, the reward is double that of general achievements in addition to the basic reward.

Exclusive achievements not eligible for the Hall of Fame typically provide double the reward of general achievements.

In such cases, it can be considered an achievement meant for only one person in all of Middle Earth.

“*Haha…* But 100 stat points without a Hall of Fame.”

In a sense, it was normal to feel a bit at a loss, but just seeing the massive numbers given by the R- rank made Leeha satisfied.

‘If an S+ rank gives stat points as a reward, it’s typically 30 points. Even with an additional 60 points from the Hall of Fame, it’s only 90.’

However, the R- rank gave 100 stat points despite not being an achievement eligible for the Hall of Fame. This meant its basic reward points were 50 points from the start.

If there had been a Hall of Fame?

‘150 points. Just one R- rank Hall of Fame achievement is equivalent to five S+ rank achievements for those not in the top three. It’s extremely difficult to rank high enough for the Hall of Fame, and even without that, S+ rank achievements themselves are incredibly tough.’

The regular rewards for S- ranks: 21 points, 25 points for S ranks, and 30 points for S+ ranks.

Where else could one get such absurd numbers like 100 or 150 points?


Just thinking about it made Leeha’s lips curl into a wide grin.

‘And the permanent access to Laputa! Hehe, I can now enter without the Red Zeppelin! Whatever the heck that quantum thing is!’

The problem was that without the Red Zeppelin, it would be hard to locate Laputa which was constantly moving through the sky, and that he would definitely need a companion with flight skills to reach there. But for now, he was content with the results.

Granting entrance permission to up to one full party meant that Leeha could add four more companions aside from himself.

‘If nothing else, I could buy about 100 flight scrolls. Or I could come with Blaugrunn-‘

― If anyone is free, could you come around here? I think I’ve found something again.

While Leeha was indulged in all sorts of bright prospects about his future actions, Fernand’s whisper spread throughout the place.

Fernand’s investigation skills, which made full use of an adventurer’s unique items and skills, were top-notch, naturally drawing users who were well aware of this to drop whatever they were doing and move immediately.

“And what is it, Fernand?”

“Here! Look at this.”

The place where Fernand had summoned them was filled with short and stubby remaining columns.

“Was this a temple?”

Bailephus nodded, looking at the debris of the lined columns.

Users quickly scanned the area and approached the wall Fernand was focused on.

How massive could that wall have been?

Now reduced to just about the users’ height, the wall was a combination of colorful, vibrant hues.

“And what is this? A half-mixed paint?”

“It’s more colorful than other places.”

“Ugh, did you call us just to look at this?”

Leeha, Kidd, and Luger each voiced their thoughts as they looked at Fernand. Fernand, smiling faintly, pulled something out.


“Right, it would appear that way to you all.”

“An adventurer’s item, huh?”

“Yes. It’s an item combined with a skill—if I use the skills related to *washi* and antique restoration…”

What he took out from his bag was quite a large piece of paper. With his arms fully extended, Fernand grabbed the ends and placed it against the wall.

Ulrek, who had approached quietly, looked at him with a worried face.

“The ruins must not be damaged, human.”

“I understand. At least, in the ruins where I’ve used this, no additional damage was discovered, so you can rest assured, Ulrek-nim.”

Fernand confidently used his skill.

“〈Rewind Time〉.”

─────────────!

The paper emitted a bright light and then absorbed the colors. When the brief flickering ended, Fernand removed the paper from the place.

“Wow! Fernand-ssi? This is incredible!”

“What the… Was there a skill like this?”

“So, that explains how you could fill the map so quickly—because we have so much information on the ruins.”

“Hmm…”

Leeha, Luger, Kidd, and even the usually silent Alexander were astonished.

It was natural for the users to be impressed by his skill. They hadn’t scrutinized each adventurer skill in detail before.

And it was the same for the non-human entities.

“This is unbelievable! Such a thing is possible?”

“Uh, Ulrek-nim?”

“I thought it was impossible to restore this even with our technological prowess…”

Ulrek gazed at the paper Fernand held with wide eyes. The Pioneer King of Middle Earth was smiling at him.

“This isn’t science.”

The paper that absorbed the colors gradually began to reveal a specific image.

It felt like a photo developing instantly. After a while, Ulrek’s surprise turned to amazement.

The users also shared the same reaction.

One word that Luger had inadvertently uttered upon hearing about 〈Laputa〉 floated into Leeha’s mind.

“… Angel?”

The only word that came to mind when looking at the creatures drawn on Fernand’s paper was this.

* * *

The creatures drawn on the paper Fernand held clearly had 〈wings〉. Not leathery wings like those of dragons or vampires, but feathered wings.

“Are these the creatures!? The ancient beings that existed in 〈Laputa〉? Are these the ones who received the 〈God’s power〉?”

“Ulrek-nim?”

Ulrek, who got so close to the paper that he seemed ready to devour it, meticulously examined the drawing. The users were more surprised by his excessive reaction.

Beings who received God’s power!

These were clearly not beings currently existing in this world. In response to the users’ curiosity, Ulrek began to explain.

“The land where the God’s power melted, we had no more information than these records. Even these were known to us only after one of my distant ancestors discovered Red Zeppelin and came here. But we never comprehended why it was called the land where God’s power melted. Yet my ancestors knew of these beings?”

The users were taken aback but didn’t stop or interrupt him.

Rather, they knew well this was an opportunity. Extracting ‘hints’ from surprised NPCs was a fundamental rule in playing Middle Earth.

Leeha, sensing the opportunity, asked first.

“The land where God’s power melted and those who received God’s power—is that just an ancient title handed down?”

“Indeed. Even with such technological prowess and the grand culture they must have achieved, it would have been astonishing for our species. They had already proven themselves far superior to us, who were the most advanced among all life forms then.”

“So you assumed that their advanced technology, along with the existence of the 〈Stairway to Heaven〉, was why it was nicknamed ‘the land where God’s power melted’? And the beings—you only found traces, not even forms, and merely guessed they were recipients of that power. Am I right?”

Ulrek nodded at Fernand’s subsequent questions.

Inferring the existence and traces of beings through ruins!

If so, the expression ‘the land where God’s power melted’ itself didn’t make sense. Regardless of how vague it might be, the beings of Middle Earth didn’t casually invoke God’s name.

There was only one plausible scenario.

‘Originally, it was backward. The beings were called those who received God’s power because they existed in the land where God’s power melted, not the other way around…’
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The beings who established and maintained this civilization, those who built the city so splendid that even the most advanced civilization of the Saurus race couldn’t match at that time.

They received the Power of God, and they judged that this land, where they lived, was ultimately imbued with the Power of God.

‘Even though Saur Land has now caught up with many aspects of Laputa, it would have been impossible during their ancestors’ time. Moreover, they still can’t open the “Stairway to Heaven!”

Did they think that opening this would ultimately mean receiving the Power of God?’

Leeha also thought as he looked at Ulrek, and then at the drawings Fernand had spread out on the floor.

‘Then where did they go?’

Was it possible that the beings who were said to have received the Power of God from Ulrek’s ancestors really became extinct?

‘The chances of them dying are low. If you think about it, there’s only one answer.’

Leeha turned his head. In the distance, a door was visible.

‘They passed through the “Stairway to Heaven”.’

They left.

For an unknown reason, they left the surface.

What could be beyond that door? Would a literal place emerge? Would it be a heaven where angels played around?

Leeha felt a familiar sensation as he stared deeply at the drawing.

“… Huh?”

“What now! Do you know something only you know?”

Luger instinctively caught onto Leeha’s state. Truly, something that “only Leeha himself” knew came to his mind.

There were many winged creatures in Middle Earth.

However, there weren’t many winged creatures that maintained a human form. Even if such beings existed, they mostly had membrane-type wings.

‘Except for Harpies, but they don’t have arms and their lower bodies are beast-like. They don’t have a perfect human form like this.’


A species that looked human but just had wings.

Conversely, if you just attached wings to a human, wouldn’t they look exactly like those? And Leeha had seen such a form before.

‘… Shimo?’

The former White Reaper, Shimo looked exactly like that.

* * *

‘Shimo, White Reaper, wings— Ah, ah, ah! It feels like something is connecting— Ah!’

Leeha shivered with chills that arose all over his body.

A specific phrase came to his mind anew.

Unlike Arcane Sniper Max whose memory Leeha first looked into, Arcane Sniper Francis, whom he looked into the second time, had said it.

‘Go to the far east of the continent across the sea. That means, he knew that there was something on the east of the New Continent. Although I’m not sure what exactly he knew or if he just speculated through Zamiel’s information, in any case, despite never being on the New Continent, he mentioned the far east across the sea.’

Arcane Sniper who passed down the “White Reaper” to the Panrind child clearly said such words.

Why?

Leeha guessed it was because there was something concerning Arcane Sniper that could be treated in Saur Land.

Didn’t he actually succeed in healing much of Kyle’s condition?

‘But he couldn’t detach Zamiel. The ultimate element of Arcane Bullet was still there. Francis surely meant that in case they wanted to shoot a different bullet, or if they wanted an attack other than the “White Reaper”, they should go to the eastern part of the New Continent. The Panrind child, who seemed to symbolize “Shimo”, wanted a bullet other than the “White Reaper”, so Francis told them to go there….’

But to shoot another bullet ultimately means becoming Arcane Sniper.

Francis, who couldn’t carelessly recommend something that might cause his own existence to vanish, eventually told them to go east.

What if it didn’t just mean Saur Land?

‘No, it might mean Saur Land but also…’

What if it meant Laputa, which could only be reached from that place?


Leeha turned his head to look at the “Stairway to Heaven”.

“As expected, is this the answer?”

Leeha knew the name of the wings that Shimo wore. The item he vaguely thought might be in the Shazrashian Federation’s treasure vault, “Liberated Legend”.

And the achievement he gained by stepping on this land!

‘The mythical “Sealed” land….’

White Reaper Shimo knew nothing about Arcane Sniper. However, Francis, who took care of him, had already left him with a lot of information and hints.

Finally, Leeha felt the link connecting them.

“What, what is it! Spill it, man!”

“… You can’t possibly solve it perfectly on your own. Won’t you accept our help?”

While Luger and Kidd were fretting, Leeha’s expression brightened a bit. The Game Master hadn’t just given a simple hint.

‘To condense so much into just the phrase “open it”, as expected of a Middle Earth GM.’

The lock and key were literally prepared.

Only one task remained: just insert the key into the lock.

“Ulrek-nim! We’ve made a new breakthrough, so let’s hurry down. Just like Bailephus-nim said—we don’t have the luxury of staying here long.”

“Indeed, now that Tiamat’s full resurrection is confirmed, we should hasten back.”

“Exactly. Let’s go! Can I operate the Red Zeppelin alone?”

Leeha quickly turned and ran back.

Even excluding Ulrek, who was still immersed in Fernand’s accomplishment, the sudden action left the users dumbfounded.

They could only think of one thing: when Leeha suddenly acted this bright…

“He must have figured something out…”


“Spit it out quickly, rat!”

“Ahem. Bailephus, my partner. Have you deduced something?”

It meant that a specific fact had been confirmed.

Amidst the commotion, Leeha’s group hurried to prepare to leave from Laputa. They would promptly head to Ezwen after briefly stopping by Saur Land upon boarding the Red Zeppelin again.

—

Rustle.

Though it was a very faint noise resonating through the deep night, everyone gathered there picked up on it.

The users turned their heads first.

“Heh… it’s here, it’s here. As expected, stats buff better when you’re near!”

“It took long enough.”

“…”

Igor, Pyro, and another member, Faust, reacted. He silently observed Chiyou emerging from the darkness.

Faust was the only user who realized Kaztor was missing from her side.

“So you’ve finally arrived.”

“Vampire Queen.”

The next to respond were the Demon King’s Fragments.

Bluebeard, who was perched on a rock, and Ghibrid, who was leaning against a tree, directed their gazes towards her.

Ghibrid had reverted to his human form. However, he didn’t look the way he did when fighting Kijung.

He was in his newly “borrowed” user form.

“You’re a bit late, count.”

Chiyou greeted Bluebeard with proper etiquette. After briefly nodding towards Ghibrid, Bluebeard asked her.

“How did it go?”

Her gaze was fixed on his abdomen. His clothes, which had been damaged in the battle with Kijung, had already been fully restored.

However, the wound from his battle with Bahamut was still not healed, causing his shirt to shimmer blue under the moonlight.

After quickly assessing Bluebeard’s condition, she spoke.

“Of course, it was a success.”

“Heh heh… Hahaha!”

Bluebeard burst into insane laughter upon hearing Chiyou’s response.

Pyro and Igor, surprised by Le’s unusual reaction, stepped back instinctively.

All the users fixated their attention on Chiyou.

They knew she embarked on a mission to the New Continent’s east, but they hadn’t expected such grand results.

“Heh… I figured as much when you showed up without Kaztor! Did you kill Kaztor?”

“Yes. The Dark Elf Kaztor is dead.”

“How exactly did you do it? Dealing with that sly one wouldn’t be easy with average cunning. Well, of course, Chiyou, you’re no ordinary human either. Haha!”

“Oh my, you’re too kind. Kaztor merely got entangled in his own schemes.”

Despite hearing Bluebeard’s prickly praise, Chiyou’s expression remained unchanged.

Faust observed Chiyou with widened pupils for a moment.

“Is that so… From the beginning, did you receive direct orders from Bluebeard to kill Kaztor?”

“Shh! Be quiet.”

When Chiyou left for the east with Kaztor, she received only one order from Bluebeard.

“〈Secure Arcane Sniper〉.”

There wasn’t any discussion about the method.

However, there was only one effective way to seize something that was practically Kaztor’s possession.

Kaztor had to be killed.

That too, while devising a way to place Arcane Sniper in her own hands.

Bluebeard’s command was of such an impossibly high difficulty level for most users, but Chiyou had accomplished it.

The reason Le, who was usually much composed, laughed maniacally was proof of the quest’s difficulty.

“If only we had returned sooner, we wouldn’t have had to awaken Tiamat in such an abnormal status. It’s a bit regrettable.”

“Tiamat! Then, this person is…?”

Even as everyone looked at Chiyou when she appeared, there was one who didn’t even glance her way.

Though there was darkness without a shred of light, Chiyou had already seen her earlier.

There stood a red-haired girl gazing blankly at the sky.

‘So, being called a six-headed dragon doesn’t mean having six heads.’

At least in a human form, she didn’t look much different from other dragons.

The difference lay in her age, as she seemed to be in her teenage years, akin to a juvenile dragon, and unlike the usually lively-eyed dragons, her eyes were void of any light, dead.

Seeing this, she was convinced.

‘At least battling Bahamut right now is out of the question. Haha! That’s most likely why she’s been staying here all this time—it’s a good thing for me too.’

Chiyou barely held back her desire to laugh.

Since Kaztor’s death, she had been flying tirelessly toward this place.

In the penalty-imposing New Continent’s east, she had killed countless monsters, flying at her highest speed.

‘If it weren’t for the vampire horde, it would have been tough. Now, I understand why dragons don’t easily travel by flight.’

Fortunately, Chiyou was not alone.

It wasn’t just Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle; she had an army of over a hundred vampires with her which allowed her to reach this place faster.

And now, their effort was about to bear fruit.

“Ah, Chiyou, it’s your first time seeing, right? This form is the only time we can manage to bring her along. Tsk, it’s a pity really. But it’s fine! Thanks to you, we can take care of Bahamut now. Once we handle that one, Tiamat can cross the ocean right away.”

“Is it impossible at the moment?”

“Bahamut senses Tiamat. If she reveals herself in this unstable state, there will be a full-on retaliation from the metal dragons. The chromatic dragons would also involve themselves… But we aren’t looking for such a messy battle.”

Absolute suppression.

Chiyou knew very well what kind of combat a near-perfectionist like Bluebeard wanted.

“Hmmmm… I see.”

“Yes, so bring Arcane Sniper here quickly.”

Bluebeard looked at Chiyou with glaring eyes.

Though it was prickly praise, his eyes had changed from the initial welcoming look.

Bluebeard and Chiyou’s collaboration could be considered the oldest.

Except for temporarily subjugated individuals like Faust and Igor, no user had devoted themselves to the Demon King’s army longer than Chiyou.

Thus, Bluebeard sensed Chiyou’s state with his abilities.

“Unless you have any ulterior motives.”

Bluebeard bared his teeth.

In the suddenly shifted atmosphere, Igor and Pyro looked between Le and Chiyou. Faust also swallowed dryly, slowly distancing himself.

The only two who didn’t move were Ghibrid and Tiamat.

Chiyou, of course, read the atmosphere well.

After scanning her surroundings once, she looked directly at Le, the noble ruler and the Demon King’s Fragment, who was furious at her.

“I apologize, but what can I do, count? Unfortunately, I cannot hand over Arcane Sniper.”

A smile blossomed on the face of the usurping Vampire Queen.
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“What, what are you talking about, woman!”

“Chiyou?”

Igor and Pyro shouted, glancing anxiously at Bluebeard.

Given that they were already under the influence of the “Hierarchy” they knew. Once you become part of the Demon King’s army, you couldn’t oppose Bluebeard.

Moreover, Chiyou, who would understand this better than anyone, staging a rebellion?

Only Faust, who had seen Kaztor and the family of Arcane Sniper, understood the situation.

“Heh, she’s obtained it. That crazy woman—”

What kind of trick did she pull?

At least the last time Faust saw him, Arcane Sniper was still under Kaztor’s grasp.

Did she kill Kaztor and seize some rights from him?

Was it the kind of thing that can be seized and passed on in that manner?

They couldn’t know the method. The process was hard to understand.

But the outcome was clear. Faust was already a step ahead of Igor and Pyro in accepting this fact thoroughly.

Even Ghibrid, who had been immobile, twitched his eyebrows and looked at Chiyou.

Bluebeard’s expression remained unaltered.

“Haha! Interesting. That’s a very good joke, Chiyou. But do know my patience isn’t that deep.”

“Oh my, wasn’t it fun? I guess only I found it amusing. Ohoho!”

Chiyou laughed heartily, covering her mouth with her sleeve.

Bluebeard’s expression began to twist from that moment.

“…… So, you really plan to go down this route.”


The Demon King’s Fragment looked ready to charge at any moment.

As he made a face that looked like he wanted to tear Chiyou limb from limb, Chiyou snapped her fingers.

**Snap—!**

“You plan to come at me that way.”

**Rustle—rustle.**

Two figures emerged from the bushes where Chiyou had appeared.

“Arcane Sniper— and— her mother?!”

It was the vampire Elizabeth and Arcane Sniper, Kyle.

Faust identified them. Him realizing this was also quite surprising.

“She turned his mother into a vampire? Instead of targeting Arcane Sniper directly, she took his parents as hostages?”

Bluebeard turned to look at Faust.

This reaction from him gratified Chiyou.

At this moment, the only person who could confirm that Arcane Sniper was real was Faust.

“So, that’s how you did it. If you turn someone’s mother into a vampire, you can control the child too?”

“It was a simple logic.”

Chiyou shrugged her shoulders. Bluebeard’s body trembled violently.

He tried to stand up. No, he would have stood up.

“How many seconds do you think it’ll take for me to decapitate those two and tear you apart, Chiyou? How dare you—”

“Stop. If any of you even twitch a finger, if your eyes so much as blink, I’ll shoot 《Arcane Bullet》.”

Had Kyle not aimed his muzzle, Bluebeard would definitely have moved.


Arcane Sniper pointed his gun at Bluebeard with a calm face.

Not only were Igor, Pyro, and Faust holding their breath, even Ghibrid couldn’t breathe properly.

Usually, Kyle would be disregarded and Igor would have recklessly charged, but there was a reason why they remained still.

Bluebeard’s movements completely froze.

His reaction alone was enough to confirm Kyle’s words were not mere bluffs, instilling a fear that something unforeseeable might happen if they took even one step.

“Huhuhu! My, my. Count! Are you letting such an insignificant joke make you freeze? Ah! Maybe it wasn’t a joke after all?”

Chiyou walked slowly.

She moved behind Kyle and stood between him and Elizabeth. Chiyou would not have appeared before Bluebeard without proper preparation.

“He’s more compliant than expected. Despite everything?”

Knowing that Elizabeth would vomit blood and die the moment she did, Kyle was forced to protect Chiyou for the sake of his mother.

“…… Chiyou. Are you really going to go this far? Are you going to shoot me?”

Bluebeard’s lips moved while his body remained frozen. Chiyou shook her head.

“Not at all. If I intended to shoot you, why would I even show up here?”

“Right. With someone who can eliminate targets without any limits in distance or space, you wouldn’t bother showing your face. So, what do you want?”

Bluebeard spoke quickly.

Even in a completely disadvantageous situation, the Demon King’s Fragment remained the Demon King’s Fragment. He did not show any signs of crying or begging.

His flexible yet realistic thinking was something Chiyou did not dislike about Bluebeard’s AI.

Therefore, her plan had remained consistent from the beginning.

“Perhaps we can envision a new future as equals, my lord. What do you think?”

“Is that what you want?”


Not only Bluebeard but also the users could understand what Chiyou was saying.

The reason she risked appearing here was singular.

“Please release me from the ‘binding’.”

To eliminate the penalties she had as part of the Demon King’s army.

Her aim was to free herself from the completely hierarchical pyramid society.

No user was unaware of how great a power that could be and how many options it could provide.

「Chiyou! You wouldn’t leave me, would you?」

「… You promised to be with me when I first arrived, didn’t you?」

Igor and Pyro whispered quickly to Chiyou.

It was clear that since she held all the cards, Chiyou would get what she wanted!

Given this, they also needed to quickly align themselves with her.

Only Faust refrained from whispering to her.

Indeed, Chiyou was an impressive user. But what would happen once she broke free from Bluebeard?

‘Le wouldn’t stay idle. Even if he let me go now, the aftermath wouldn’t be clean.’

Currently, Bluebeard had Tiamat as well.

Furthermore, Faust was a necromancer.

If they followed Chiyou and gained freedom, what would be the benefits for the Demon King’s army in the future?

Above all, the existence of Pyrot-Cocri, capable of controlling all undead, was extraordinary. At least to Faust, Pyrot-Cocri was akin to a deity.

“What can you promise if I comply? If I release you and you immediately shoot Arcane Bullet, I gain nothing.”

“Why say such cold things? I don’t dislike you, count. I just want to remove some inconvenient shackles. As I mentioned earlier, if our futures align, wouldn’t this be better?”

If it was mutually beneficial, they could join hands.

However, if it was harmful, they could attack without mercy. Hearing Chiyou’s words, Bluebeard gritted his teeth audibly.

“At least for the near future, we can be on the same side.”

“Well, that depends on you, my lord. Hoho.”

“… Sending you to liberate Bathory was a mistake.”

“Do you regret it?”

An ordinary dancer could never have achieved this.

Having awakened as a 〈Vampire Queen〉 through her second job change, everything was possible, and Bluebeard seemed to recall the past.

However, he wasn’t one to nod in agreement with Chiyou’s annoying questions.

“No, it’s interesting. This level of capability is necessary for ‘our future together’.”

Hearing the subtle proposal with a smile, Chiyou suppressed her laughter.

Bluebeard gave her a knowing look.

Only then did Chiyou exclaim, “Ah!”

and turned to Kyle.

“You can go back now. But if anyone attacks me or tries to attack you—shoot Bluebeard with 《Arcane Bullet》.”

While pulling back Kyle and Elizabeth, she chose the best option to ensure her safety.

It wasn’t to shoot those attacking. It was to shoot Bluebeard.

Chiyou was thorough. Now, it was time for her thorough actions to pay off.

Once Arcane Sniper completely disappeared from sight, Bluebeard moved again. He quietly closed his eyes.

Moments later, a bluish light flashed from both Bluebeard and Chiyou.

“It’s done.”

“Hmm, so I can still control vampires. I was wondering.”

“That’s your kind’s business. It has nothing to do with me.”

Now, as a user of the Demon King’s army without any restriction, she looked at Pyro and Igor.

“Igor, Pyro?”

With a gaze that assured they would become significant assets, she called them as if summoning her subordinates.

If she could rescue them from Bluebeard’s constraints and place them under her control?

She would have a perfect set of cards, unlike anything in Shinobigumi or Yamato.

And Bluebeard surely knew this too.

“Ghibrid.”

Bluebeard had been observing the two people moving towards Chiyou from the beginning.

The moment he quietly called out another Demon King’s Fragment, the fragment leaning against the tree started to move.

Kwaaaaaa────────ng!

“Wha-what― If you attack me―”

“Tsk,tsk, it’s not you, Chiyou.”

Chiyou stepped back nervously, but Ghibrid’s attack wasn’t directed at her.

“Ugh……”

“Pu-hup― keu-duck, bu-gureuk―”

Ghibrid had used all his strength and believed he was in control of the situation, becoming careless.

The intersection of these two conditions came at a high cost.

“This wasn’t part of the agreement, was it? Am I wrong?”

One strike would be repaid with another.

Chiyou frowned as she listened to Bluebeard’s words.

The agreement between Chiyou and Bluebeard, and also the order Chiyou had given to Kyle, was, ‘If there’s any act of aggression towards her or Kyle’s family, shoot Bluebeard.’

In other words, Igor and Pyro were not included under that protection, and Bluebeard used this minor detail to take a hit at Chiyou.

“Alright. I acknowledge this.”

Although disappointed, Chiyou had no choice but to back down.

After all, Igor and Pyro would rejoin and follow her after ten days. There was no need to clash with Bluebeard in such a state.

“Well then… I’ll see you next time, count.”

She greeted Bluebeard and looked at Faust. Faust averted his eyes to avoid her gaze.

With a small smile, she disappeared into the darkness.

She headed in the very direction where Kyle and Elizabeth had vanished.

“Tsk tsk… What a pity. However, I appreciate your loyalty, Faust.”

“Th-thank you, count.”

Clicking his tongue, Bluebeard turned his head after looking towards the direction where Chiyou had disappeared.

On the ground, the bodies of Igor and Pyro still lay.

Faust was watching them.

If he could revive their corpses as undead, if they became his weapons, the attack power would be on a whole new level!

Seeing Faust’s salivation, Bluebeard shook his head.

“Sorry, but you won’t be using them.”

“N-no?! A-actually, I didn’t intend to…”

“Watch closely.”

Interrupting Faust’s words, Bluebeard extended his hand towards their corpses.

Reading their betrayal was not the only reason he killed Igor and Pyro.

At that moment, Faust understood.

The only way to eliminate the traitors while not wasting their own force.

“Merge.”

The command of the “Chimera’s Nest” was absolute.

The bodies of the once third-ranked Blood Sucker and the Outsider Flame Mage turned ashen before slowly melting.

The gelatinous melted substance then began to merge into one.

‘Crazy! If it ends up like that―’

Igor and Pyro would still play a crucial part in the Demon King’s army.

To be precise, the Chimera under Ghibrid, formed by the fusion of Igor’s strength and Pyro’s skills, would dominate the scene.

* * *

“It’s certain, right?”

“Are you asking me for confirmation after inquiring three times, human Ha Leeha?”

“N-no, it’s just that… We handed over the vocal cords and skin of the Anti-King― I mean, Toon, so if it’s different from what you said, we won’t be able to come back.”

Hurriedly shaking his hands as he spoke, Leeha saw Ulrek smile.

Until the day he left Saur Land, the smile of a dinosaur always unsettled him.

Even Kidd and Luger flinched at the fierce expression.

“In the name of the 3rd Prince of Saur Land and by the authority granted by King Trudon, I affirm. To human Ha Leeha and all the humans and dragons who entered here, they are granted permanent access to Saur Land unless they threaten its peace and security.”

Ulrek declared once again to Leeha and his party.

Finally, their expressions brightened a bit.
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There were only a few NPCs in Saur Land, but the efforts made by users during Kyle’s treatment, including the employees of Goople(?), and the joint battle to protect the ‘Red Zeppelin’ while heading to Laputa had all contributed to raising affinity.

Because of that, Saur Land was already treating them favorably.

“Then, I’ll be back soon! It won’t take long!”

Leeha waved to Ulrek. Now, they were just a few steps away from the barrier.

The barrier that separated Saur Land from the outside had no distinct features when viewed from within.

“I remember what you told His Majesty the King. I believe you will bring the key to the ‘Stairway to Heaven’, human Ha Leeha.”

With Ulrek’s farewell, Leeha and his party crossed the barrier.

Since their return from Laputa, the users who had received the most attention were Leeha and Fernand. Naturally, the surrounding users felt some jealousy.

“Hehe, it might take a few months to actually get it, though.”

“Luger, stop being pessimistic and just cooperate.”

Luger’s complaints stemmed from this reason. Knowing this, Leeha simply stuck out his tongue, knowing that was enough of a retort.

“Let’s hurry. There’s no need to waste time.”

Ignoring the bickering between Leeha and Luger, Kidd picked up the pace.

Their route had already been planned, so the users moved forward without hesitation.

Alexander and Bailephus set out for Bahamut, while the rest aimed to return to Ezwen.

How long had they been reflecting on the gains and conversations from their time in Saur Land while moving?

Fernand, checking his character and skill windows, grumbled beside Leeha.

“It’s disappointing there’s nothing special. I thought we’d get something amazing since we were the first users to visit.”

“Human Compass, you shouldn’t complain! Everyone knows you received additional rewards for finding the Archangel or whatever it was!”

“Indeed. We all saw how the King was astonished at the restoration of the appearance of ‘Those Blessed with God’s Power’.”


Compared to Luger and Kidd, Fernand’s situation was better. Fernand’s grumbling had only one reason.

“No matter what, it’s nothing compared to what Ha Leeha received.”

Knowing someone else had received more than him.

No one disagreed with Fernand’s words. Everyone’s gaze naturally turned to Leeha.

“Well, it was a quest! I received it for killing Kaztor; it’s not the same.”

Leeha quickly spoke up, feeling the stinging eyes on the back of his head, but his excuse fell short.

“Does anyone think they didn’t fight, Ha Leeha? Don’t forget who killed the most vampires with ‘Fusion’.”

Alexander shared the same opinion as Fernand.

Everyone had fought together. Thanks to this, all of them had gained the right to enter Saur Land, but such logical arguments were useless at this point.

‘Oh, it’s an achievement. How could I split it? This awkwardness makes even the hectic bargaining worthless!’

King Trudon of Saur Land had reacted as Leeha feared.

Even though Kaztor was killed, Arcane Sniper ended up in the enemy’s hands, so their safety wasn’t guaranteed. Therefore, no reward would be given.

Leeha had put in considerable effort to overturn that logic.

He pointed out that Chiyou was not interested in this place, did not even know where it was, and thus couldn’t use Arcane Sniper. He also mentioned that during the Red Zeppelin battle, Chiyou promised not to touch Saur Land and knew she couldn’t use Arcane Sniper if she violated that promise. He barely convinced him this way.

“Well, everyone took items in Laputa anyway! I don’t even know how to use this thing I got.”

Leeha opened his bag and showed them the item.

The reward given by King Trudon was rather disappointing.

“What am I supposed to do with this? It’s not something to decorate a room with.”

There was a sheet of about A4 size, with dense drawings on it.

The very thing Fernand had discovered in Laputa, depicting ‘Those Blessed with God’s Power’ and the ‘Stairway to Heaven’ in a single scene.


It wasn’t even an ordinary piece of paper, and although King Trudon’s name was written on it, its purpose was unknown.

“Give it to me, and I’ll figure out how to use it.”

“I’d be better at it than Luger. If it is too difficult to use, just give it to me.”

“Ahhh! Fine! I’m a wretch! Satisfied?”

As Luger and Kidd jumped at the chance, Leeha eventually had to shut up.

“Hmph, now I feel relieved.”

“Hehe, I won’t go easy on you. I’ll endlessly torment you until we reach the center of the new continent.”

The group of hyenas making noise with the intention of harassing couldn’t be managed.

“Hahaha!”

Even Bailephus burst into laughter as he saw Kidd and Luger take a breather.

“I don’t care! Anyway, this is mine! I’m not sharing it with you guys! I’m going first!”

Leeha covered his ears and sped up.

There was no worry about encountering monsters or getting lost.

『Myong!』

This was because Jellypong, who had suddenly popped out from Leeha’s chest, was holding a map copied from Fernand.

They said the journey feels longer going there but shorter coming back.

There was no worry about an ambush. It wasn’t surprising that Leeha’s group reached the central part of the new continent within six days through the shortest route after leaving Saur Land.

* * *

As soon as they arrived at the central part of the new continent, the first to leave was Alexander.

“Aren’t you coming with us to Ezwen?”


“Knowing the key to the ‘Stairway to Heaven’ is in Ezwen is enough. Isn’t it impossible to go to Laputa without our help?”

Could extreme self-confidence make even brazen words seem dignified? Alexander’s words even made Bailephus embarrassed, but Alexander maintained a nonchalant expression.

“Are you saying you’ll go do something else while we call you?”

While Luger shook his head in disapproval, Leeha asked the question.

He once again adhered faithfully to his user concept.

“I simply intend to administer justice in a rational and efficient manner. Don’t forget that Tiamat has fully awakened.”

After making an undisputed argument, he headed to Bahamut with Bailephus, while the rest of the group, including Leeha, was currently at the Ezwen Papal Seat.

“So you came so quickly from there—from the eastern end of the new continent? And not alone, but with the Dire—no, with Sir Browless?”

“To tell Master Kay, for an average user, especially those who don’t know the way, it would take at least a month.”

“Wow…”

As Kijung looked at the group with admiration written across his face, Fernand shrugged his shoulders.

It indirectly highlighted that his map was the biggest factor in shortening the travel time, but Kijung didn’t catch on to that.

“What about logging out? Don’t you guys need to rest?”

“Don’t even mention it. It’s like my body’s walking but my mind is sleeping… It felt exactly like that during the long march.”

Although they accumulated considerable fatigue over the past few days of forced march, no one thought of logging out.

They knew they could endure it better than when they relocated to Saur Land, and they could relax a bit after reporting at Ezwen.

Even after entering the papal seat and requesting an audience with the Pope, Kijung continued questioning Leeha.

How Saur Land was, what kind of monsters they encountered on the way, what they did in a place called Laputa.

Above all, he was curious about how impressive an R- rank achievement could be!

Leeha occasionally mixed in whispers as he answered Kijung but didn’t mention the R- rank achievement.

—Tell me how you managed to crush the dragon’s head against Ghibrid and Bluebeard, and I’ll tell you.

—Hehe, that would be too much of a loss for me, hyung. I am curious about the R- rank, but my skill is probably rarer~.

—You bastard….

While Leeha and Kijung were bantering and waiting, the papal seat quickly accepted the audience request, including the Exorcism Cardinal.

“Leeha.”

Just before they were about to report their recent journey to the east to the Pope, Browless held Leeha’s shoulder.

“Yes, director.”

“Regarding Beth and Brown… please explain it well.”

Although he spoke to Leeha, Browless’s gaze didn’t rest on him alone. Kidd and Luger, as well as Fernand, could understand the NPC’s intention.

Above all, the deep friendship and regret of the previous generation’s Three Musketeers had become well known even to Fernand, who was not part of them.

In the past, Elizabeth and Brown had sent video footage to the Pope.

It revealed that Lord Zark was actually Kaztor, and that they were forced by circumstances, rather than by choice, to join the Demon King’s army under threat of losing their child.

The honor of the NPCs, who had always been pointed at, was slightly restored after that day.

But how was it now?

―Arcane Sniper Kyle could use the Arcane Bullet at his own discretion.

―However, his mother Elizabeth became a vampire and was taken by the Demon King’s army.

―Although there were no personal problems for him, Brown, who couldn’t just leave them, also went along with them.

It was indeed a sad fact.

Yet, how the Sacred Alliance would accept these events remained unknown.

“Yes, I understand, sir.”

“That’s why I skipped the report I was supposed to give to General Edwin and came straight here.”

The users could also empathize with these feelings.

Following Leeha and Kidd’s remarks, Luger added, “They’re underestimating us too much,” which finally brought a look of relief to Browless’s face.

“The Exorcism Cardinal and their companions may enter!”

At last, the door to the Pope’s room opened.

Pope Urban II greeted Leeha and his party with a rather fatigued expression.

“Welcome. Exorcism Cardinal has brought some esteemed guests today. It has been quite some time since I last saw you, Ha Leeha.”

“It has been a while, Your Holiness.”

As Leeha offered his bright greeting, the door to the Pope’s office slowly closed.

The reports on various secretive operations, including the Eastern Continent Expedition and matters regarding Laputa, proceeded without much trouble.

Whenever Leeha missed a point, Kidd, Luger, and Fernand filled in the gaps, ensuring nothing was left out.

The Pope’s expression changed with every report.

When they spoke of Arcane Sniper Kyle, Elizabeth, and Brown, whose stories were condensed, the Pope donned a sorrowful and pitiful expression. However, upon hearing about Saur Land and beyond, and Laputa, his expression became one of a child’s curiosity.

“So, what happened next? Did you go there?”

“Yes, of course. Not only did we go there, but we also found the door.”

“The door?”

The Pope almost leapt from his seat in excitement. Seeing his reaction, Leeha felt assured.

“The dinosaurs of the Saur Land called it the ‘Stairway to Heaven’. Even with their advanced technology, they couldn’t open it, but I believe we can.”

“Stairway to Heaven! That’s an amazing description. So, they couldn’t open it… No, that’s not the important part! Are you saying we can open that door? Did you try opening it?”

Listening to the Pope’s urgent questions, Leeha shook his head and responded modestly.

“Yes. If Your Holiness provides the key, we can open it. The ‘Key of Jannate’ was the key to Laputa and the Stairway to Heaven.”

The Pope finally leapt from his chair.

His excited face, however, began to darken shortly afterward.

* * *

The Pope did not speak first to the party.

Despite his various reactions to their journey and possessing the ‘Key of Jannate,’ his silence was prolonged.

Leeha was momentarily flustered.

Given his previous attitude, one would expect him to stand up and hand over the ‘Key of Jannate’ right away.

In the midst of this silence, Kijung spoke up.

“Your Holiness, you previously acknowledged Ha Leeha’s contributions after the Pyrot-Cocri incident.”

It was something Kijung knew well because he had secured confirmation from the Pope.

The ‘Key of Jannate’ was a challenging item to give away under normal circumstances. Still, considering Ha Leeha’s significant contributions in destroying Pyrot-Cocri’s doppelganger, it was appropriate to urge its provision as a fitting reward.

As Kijung subtly pressured the Pope, he nodded in response.

However, it was not a nod of agreement.

“That’s correct. I am well aware of Ha Leeha’s exceptional efforts. However, the ‘Key of Jannate’ is not within my authority to hand over.”

“Huh? The previous Pope, Gaius IV, handed it out easily enough! Of course, it was for the purpose of subduing the Demon King’s Fragment…”

As Leeha hastily spoke, the Pope let out a small sigh.

“That was a flaw on my part. I am still inadequate in my ability to bear the name of Urban II.”

“What do you mean by that—”
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“You must be familiar with the emblem of our papal state.”

“It certainly was shaped like a key.”

Although it wasn’t winged like the key of Jannate, the emblem of the Vatican of Ezwen was indeed a key.

Listening to Leeha’s response, Pope Urban II began to explain about the emblem.

“The ‘Key of Jannate’ was said to be directly bestowed by Ahlo to the apostles even before the Vatican of Ezwen was established. Although there are various accounts, there is no dispute that it is the highest holy relic of the papal state and symbolizes the state itself.”

“I see.”

Leeha was genuinely surprised.

He knew it wasn’t an ordinary item. He also knew that it was a significant object researched by many in the Vatican of Ezwen to the extent that there were conflicting theories about it.

However, he didn’t realize it was an item described as being “directly given by God.”

Leeha regretted not examining it more closely when it was in his possession.

“That is exactly the issue.”

“Pardon?”

“The Lord did not bestow it upon a ‘pope’. There wasn’t even a concept of a pope back then. When the Lord bestowed the Key of Jannate, it was given to ten apostles. It wasn’t given to a single person.”

“Do you mean that the rights to the ‘Key of Jannate’ are divided?”

Leeha asked cautiously.

Why emphasize the number ten? His guess was somewhat accurate.

“Yes. The apostles received the key from the Lord and selected a leader among them, deciding to formally establish and operate the papal state. However, to check the leader, the rights to the ‘Key of Jannate’ were divided among those excluding the leader. That was the first pope and the first cardinals.”

“Ah, I see!? Your Holiness! If it’s a pope and cardinals—one pope and nine cardinals—”

“Now we refer to them as the ‘C9’, the Council of Nine Cardinals.”

When talking about Elizabeth, Brown, and Kyle, or when interrogating Browless, Leeha recalled the appearances of the cardinals.


When Kaztor killed the previous pope, nine members attended as representatives of the Vatican of Ezwen excluding the pope. The authority over the ‘Key of Jannate’ was divided among them.

That was why the pope’s expression was dark.

Leeha also understood the pope’s intent. How could one use an item with rights divided among nine people?

“With only the members supporting me currently, I won’t secure a majority.”

A vote was necessary.

This meant that at least five out of the nine members of the cardinals’ council excluding the pope had to agree, and the pope did not have enough control over the public sentiment to solicit such agreement at this time.

“Considering your reputation, it’s more favorable compared to the previous pope and even during your days as Cardinal Romero, isn’t it?”

Leeha tried to persuade him, but the pope only showed a gentle yet somewhat sorrowful expression.

“As embarrassing as it is to say, perhaps that’s the reason.”

The brighter the light, the darker the shadow.

As the pope’s reputation improved, the opponents’ jealousy grew, and his kind demeanor accelerated the growth of opposing factions.

“So, what’s the current configuration?”

Hearing Leeha’s question, the cardinal standing next to the pope frowned.

Revealing internal issues of the papal state to an outsider was quite shameful. But who were those present, including Leeha?

The pope sighed and spoke of the situation.

“Currently, it’s about 4:5.”

“‘Currently’ means—”

“There will soon be a vote among the cardinals for member election. After that…”

He referred to the possibly more desperate situation he might not even want to hear.

“There’s a chance it could become 3:6.”


***

“The secret of ‘Laputa’ lies in the ‘Stairway to Heaven,’ and yet those blockheads—”

“Luger!”

Kidd snapped at Luger with a metallic tone.

Luger, realizing his inappropriate language in front of the pope, tried to choose his words more carefully, but the pope agreed with him.

“They are blockheads indeed.”

“H-His Holiness! How can you say such things in front of an outsider…”
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The Cardinal’s Advisor had anxiously tried to stop the Pope, but the Pope did not withdraw his words.

“In the end, they would oppose even if we presented Laputa to them.”

Someday, the Pope thought, they would bring up the matter when they could completely take the lead.

‘Only then, when the use of the “Key of Jeannate” is permitted, will their reputation truly rise.’

Leeha pondered for a moment.

If the current balance stood at 4:5, then persuading just one person would suffice, wouldn’t it?

What if he took the initiative?

Or what if everyone present, including himself, took the initiative?

‘Heh, we could show exactly what the Three Musketeers of the previous generation did.’

They could be persuaded through “Bargaining”.

Luger could show a bit of his strength. And if that didn’t work?

Leeha glanced slyly at Kidd and Browless. They were likely thinking along similar lines.

What would it feel like if two members of Rapidfire lurked in the shadows of the opposition’s residence?


He could reproduce, along with his disciple, the reason why all the power brokers of the Rophis continent feared Browless.

But would that really be right?

“If we interfere—”

“The resistance would intensify even more. You are not members of the Ezwen Theocracy, nor do you use divine power.”

The Pope surely thought of everything Leeha was considering.

Would Fernand, who was affiliated with the Ezwen Theocracy, act alone without the involvement of the Three Musketeers?

That wouldn’t be easy either.

Though he was a king in the field of adventure and pioneering, he was somewhat poor at dealing with people.

‘He must be particularly weak in such delicate political battles. Ugh, damned Middle Earth!’

Nothing was easy.

As Leeha grumbled and every other user was racking their brains, there was one person who appeared completely calm.

“Kijung-ah?”

“Hyung, I was wondering why a window popped up for me.”

“What?”

“Turns out… it was this.”

“What do you mean?”

Kijung stared blankly into the air.

Just as Leeha thought he might be looking at something related to a system window, Kijung’s eyes returned to focus.

“This is where I had to step in. The next goal for me, as the ‘Exorcism Cardinal’…”

He turned his head to look at the Pope, then at the other users, and finally at Leeha.

“It was the Council of Nine Cardinals.”

The achievements he had gained when he disposed of Pyrot-Cocri’s clone and received the skill “Ahlo’s Mace” held a clear significance.

* * *

Together with the users, Browless stepped out of the Vatican. They had gained nothing immediate.

No items, no achievements.

But at least there was hope now.

“Managing one of the dioceses of Fibiel? But why didn’t you take it?”

The achievement “The One Allowed the Mace of the Supreme God” included more than just the skill “Ahlo’s Mace”.

Kijung, who was currently a regular cardinal, had also been given the additional right to receive the ordination of a bishop and choose to manage one of Fibiel’s 15 dioceses.

“I find it bothersome. Battling chimeras in the New Continent’s center is more fun.”

Of course, that didn’t mean Kijung would use it right away.

“Hey, you— you idiot!”

Just as Leeha yelled, Luger burst out laughing.

“As expected of Ha Leeha’s relative. They are splitting images.”

“Be quiet, Luger. We’re cousins, not real siblings.”

“Same difference. You’re actions are the same. Who would’ve thought there’d be a user who’d squash the reward they received. Haha!”

Luger repeatedly smiled as if to pay back for what had happened to him in Saur Land.

Leeha didn’t have the energy to argue back.

In reality, he knew better than anyone what kind of personality Kijung had.

“It’s still too early to laugh. Master Kay, it’s not over until you really reach C9.”

“That’s right. And it doesn’t look like it’ll be easy.”

“Of course, it won’t be easy! What achievements have you earned?”

“Uh… one of them is ‘The Rising Star of the Ezwen Holy Kingdom’.”

『Achievement: The Rising Star of the Ezwen Holy Kingdom (S-)』

Congratulations!

You have resolved many issues that the Ezwen Papacy considered problematic. As a result, the number of people within the Papacy who are watching you is gradually increasing. You will be regarded as a welcomed individual anywhere in the Ezwen Holy Kingdom, and numerous followers of Ahlo will begin to remember your name.

Reward: 21 stat points

Ezwen Holy Kingdom overall intimacy +15%

Free health recovery at any shrine within the Ezwen Holy Kingdom

You are the third registrant of The Rising Star of the Ezwen Holy Kingdom achievement.

The third registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the original effects will apply.

Effect: 42 stat points

Ezwen Holy Kingdom overall intimacy +30%

“In the Hall of Fame as the third registrant?”

“Yeah, I have that too. I think I was the second.”

Fernand answered Leeha’s question directed at Kijung. Kijung nodded saying, “Ah, right.”

“Yes. As you are affiliated with Ezwen, it’s likely that achieving a certain number of quests triggers it.”

“That seems to be the case. If I’m the second and Master Kay is the third, the first must be—”

“It must be Raphaela.”

Everyone could agree with Kijung’s words.

Was she not the most renowned user in the realm of Holy Power?

A user who had maintained her reputation longer than Kijung would certainly have achieved this feat.

“Then what’s the other one, Master Kay? It must be an achievement I don’t have.”

Fernand shared the same achievement as Kijung.

Yet, stepping forward and saying something wasn’t enough.

That meant there must have been another achievement that helped Kijung cement his standing.

Fernand’s guess was accurate.

Kijung answered, “It’s ‘The Cardinals’ Jealousy’.”

Just by its name, it seemed like an achievement entwined with faction conflicts that could never be escaped.

* * *

『Achievement: The Cardinals’ Jealousy (S)』

Congratulations!

You have gained significant fame within the Ezwen Holy Kingdom, and as a member of 『The Pope’s Faction』! The path you can choose is now very narrow. You have no choice but to drive out the ruffians engaging in factional struggles within the holy grounds. Want to avoid it? Even if you claim not to be part of 『The Pope’s Faction』, the 『Anti-Pope’s Faction』 will not leave you alone unless you are a frontline figure battling monsters. So, let’s surpass those who approach religion with warped perspectives and demonstrate true faith! The Lord will guide you on a hard but rewarding and warm path.

Reward: 25 stat points

Intimacy with cardinals of 『The Pope’s Faction』 +25%

Intimacy with cardinals of 『The Anti-Pope’s Faction』 -50%

You are the second registrant of The Cardinals’ Jealousy achievement.

The third registrant of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the original effects will apply.

Effect: 50 stat points

Intimacy with cardinals of 『The Pope’s Faction』 +50%

Intimacy with cardinals of 『The Anti-Pope’s Faction』 -100%

“What is that? Pope’s Faction, Anti-Pope’s Faction?”

“Ah, in Ezwen, there are a lot of achievements like this. They use brackets to symbolize specific individuals or factions, likely because they can change. If I didn’t have high intimacy with the Pope, I’d be marked as part of 『The Anti-Pope’s Faction』 and hated by 『The Pope’s Faction』.”

“Don’t talk so leisurely! So? Who are the cardinals of the Pope’s and Anti-Pope’s Factions? What’s their number? In C9, it’s about 4:5, right?”

While speaking to Kijung, Leeha kept his eyes on Fernand.
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It was an action born of certainty, believing Kijung couldn’t possibly know. However, Fernand, having no interest in the Ezwen faction, didn’t know either.

“The Pope’s Faction naturally follows His Holiness, but the Anti-Pope’s Faction… Well?”

“Man, at least know their leader! Who heads the Anti-Pope’s Faction? That Tus… something guy?”

“Oh, it’s not Tusculani. That faction has completely crumbled.”

During the current Pope’s time as a cardinal, Tusculani was one of the strongest candidates for the papacy. It was Kijung who played a decisive role in toppling Tusculani, the largest faction in Ezwen.

After uncovering electoral fraud, Tusculani completely collapsed, and his followers disbanded.

“I thought you had a masterstroke because you declared you’d become C9. But you didn’t even know the name of the opposing leader?”

Feeling frustrated by Kijung’s words, Kidd stepped up.

Luger kept muttering, “Just like Ha Leeha’s hyung!” in a grumbling tone.

Both Leeha and Fernand, as well as Browless, couldn’t hide their anxiety, but Kijung himself seemed completely nonchalant.

“I really don’t know about those things. Being the guild master of Byulcho requires a lot of attention. Since the last incident, there have been daily membership requests, and conducting joining tests is no easy task either.”

“Do you call that an excuse? If you don’t know, then find someone who does—”

“Yeah, that’s why I brought her.”

What gave Kijung so much confidence?

The phrase “9 Cardinals Committee” and the mention of Ezwen’s “faction” battles. When those words came up, Kijung had already had someone in mind.

“Oh boy, even if everyone doesn’t know, how can you discuss such things right in front of the papal office? And do you think it won’t be noticeable when one of the most prominent cardinals from the Pope’s Faction is right here?”

The scolding voice sounded somewhat like Ram Hwayeon, but she wouldn’t come all the way here. The scale of the New Continent’s paleo coalition, the 〈Partisan〉, had been growing day by day, constructing fortresses and barriers everywhere to expand their defensive lines.

However, concerning matters related to divine power, there was someone who could be recognized as having information as good as or better than Ram Hwayeon’s.

She waved her hand toward Kijung as she appeared with the sound of elegant footsteps.

“Raphaela…?”


“The Saintess? Now that I think about it, it has been a long time since I’ve seen her.”

“Oh my. Hello, Ha Leeha of the 〈R- Rank〉! And ‘Stinger’ Kidd and unlucky Luger, too?”

“What the—”

Saintess Raphaela.

Due to her nickname, very few knew her true nature. Luckily, Kijung knew her true nature very well.

—Right, Kijung, you mentioned her before?

—Yes. That woman is super cunning. She probably knows everything.

Leeha and Kijung exchanged looks. During the Pyrot-Cocri avatar slaying quest, their conversations had reached Leeha as well. She was indeed not an ordinary person.

—So, should I help you? This time it’s not even a quest.

—Hyung, didn’t you remember what I said earlier? I have the right to choose one of the Fibiel dioceses.

—What does that have to do with her?

—Oh, hyung, returning from 〈Laputa〉, seems to have his brain stiffened. If I become the diocesan bishop, who do you think would manage the ‘monasteries’ in that diocese?

“Oh…?”

Leeha, unknowingly, let out a gasp. What Raphaela wanted so much was the position of the Grand Abbot of Minis! If she could get something equivalent in another country like Fibiel?

Knowing that her fame had already sufficiently spread in Minis, Raphaela would desire it even more.

—You’re quite clever?

—Who do you think I learned from? Haha, hyung. Leave it to me. In Middle Earth’s time, it’s 50 days, so I’ll figure it out by then.

In reality, it was only about ten days. Considering logout times, the actual working hours would be even less. Despite that, Kijung was confident.

For some reason, Leeha felt that the presence of his younger cousin in front of him had significantly grown.

―I believe you.


―Okay.

Not just for Leeha, but also for Kijung, who was growing into an essential player that Middle Earth couldn’t overlook.

* * *

After a brief “meeting” in front of the Vatican, the users scattered in different directions. They needed more than half of C9’s agreement to secure the “Key of Jannate,” and the vote for the selection of the “Council of Nine Cardinals” was happening in 50 days. There was no reason to waste time here.

“I will be near the central part of the New Continent. That’s the only place where we can get their news quickest.”

Browless headed toward the center of the New Continent. As an NPC essential to Kijung, who led the Star Troop, he promptly whispered to a member of the Star Troop to guide and escort him.

“Kidd, aren’t you going with the Headmaster?”

“Right now, I need to go somewhere else―away from the Headmaster.”

“Kheheh, where are you going? What are you hiding?”

“Luger, you don’t need to know.”

“The Three Musketeers’ teleportation spell will show―”

Whoosh―!

Kidd quickly teleported. Even Luger and Leeha were slightly surprised as they watched him vanish. Kidd would normally insist on following Browless, but he had chosen a different path at this moment. Although Kidd wanted to keep it hidden, Luger’s words weren’t wrong. The Three Musketeers’ teleportation network revealed Kidd’s location.

‘Southern Fibiel―Blazing Desert―Deadwood? It’s a village?’

The village where Kidd succeeded in his secondary advancement. He had only one reason to visit that place without telling Leeha and Luger.

Kidd soon headed toward the sheriff’s office in Deadwood, fiddling with his waist belt.

“Now that Luger’s Viper has awakened, I must awaken the geckos by beating them up if necessary.”

His pace quickened.

Having confirmed Kidd’s position, Luger’s brow twitched as well. The hunter, who instinctively knew what Kidd was planning, also fiddled with his weapon.

“I’m going too.”


“Where to? Are you getting information on Tiamat?”

“Keke, just wait. I’ll prepare something that can swallow those six dragon heads in one go.”

“What—”

Whoosh―!

Luger also quickly teleported. Leeha, somewhat bewildered, soon sighed. It was the most Lugeresque thing to do.

‘Even though the Cobalt Blue Python has awakened, it can’t be used at full capacity from the start.’

There would definitely be restrictions similar to the Black Bass’s charge rate. Luger must have moved to resolve that issue.

Aside from that, Fernand disappeared to gather information on Tiamat, and both Kijung and Raffaella relocated to begin their “work,” scattering in all directions.

Left alone in front of the Vatican at Ezwen, Leeha briefly savored the solitude, but he didn’t have much time to spare either.

‘Regarding information on Tiamat… I should be able to obtain some.’

Alexander and Bailephus probably already had some information. However, everything couldn’t be left entirely in their hands. To fully understand the current situation of the metal dragon clan, it was better for him to go personally.

“Moreover, there’s something I need to give.

『Partner: Summon』.”

Taking out the gift prepared for Blaugrunn, Leeha immediately used the skill.

Blaugrunn’s location was near the entrance to Peklo City.

“Wow! Ha Leeha-nim!”

“Whoa, Blaugrunn-ssi, you’ve really grown taller!”

As soon as Blaugrunn saw Leeha, he ran to him. Though it was unfortunate Blaugrunn was still at the juvenile stage, Leeha could notice his substantial growth. Blaugrunn had grown to the point where they were almost at eye level. Despite all their travels together, Blaugrunn had suddenly experienced a growth spurt for a different reason.

“Of course! If that Blaugrunn doesn’t grow up quickly, I’m in trouble! Oh, I need to go kill that damned mixed-blood too! I’m busy enough trying to decorate my house with the pieces of his cursed body, so why does the Lord want me to educate someone like him?”

“Uh? Hello― there?”

A human was sitting on a snow-covered rock.

It was a woman with cold silver hair tied in a ponytail, but her expression was full of dissatisfaction, making Leeha tense up.

“Don’t say such things, Zelreja-nim! It’s not like I want to receive combat training!”

“What, you punk!? Get over here!”

“Ha Leeha-nim!”

Blaugrunn quickly hid behind Leeha.

It was a sight Blaugrunn would never normally show.

Above all, Leeha quickly understood the presence of a woman who remained unfazed even at his appearance.

“Hello, dragon.”

“Are you that brat’s partner? You look quite weak. Unlike you, Bailephus’ partner seemed trustworthy. You’re a disappointment.”

“Haha. Is that so?”

Despite his over 100% affinity with the metal dragon clan, such an attitude! Leeha glanced at Blaugrunn.

—Who is she?

—The strongest bully born from the Steel Dragon clan.

With those simple words, Blaugrunn answered. No further explanation was necessary for Leeha to decide.

“Then we shall be going. We’ve something to report to Lord Bahamut. Let’s go, Blaugrunn-ssi.”

“What, you two just do as you please―”

“Goodbye, Zelreja-nim!”

Before Zelreja could finish her sentence, Blaugrunn used teleportation.

Swoosh―!

As Leeha’s body was transported, he saw the woman running towards him from the rock.

He thought the distance was considerable, but she moved in an instant.

『Whew, that was close…』

“Right? I thought she’d grab me by the scruff of my neck.”

Both Jellypong and Leeha instinctively took a defensive stance simultaneously.

“Haha, seems like you greeted Zelreja.”

The metal dragon King, Bahamut, was watching the scene.

Leeha, trying to return the greeting after a long time, halted his action. Bahamut’s left arm was missing.

* * *

“Bahamut… nim?”

Bailephus and Alexander were no longer visible.

Bahamut was alone in his lair. Leeha suddenly felt Bahamut’s lair seemed desolate.

No matter how vast the hollow was, he had never felt this way before.

Even in human form, Bahamut’s presence always filled the large space.

But now?

It wasn’t just about ‘losing an arm’.

“Oh, this? Don’t worry too much. There’s no inconvenience for me with something like this.”

Bahamut snapped his right hand, summoning tea. The cup floated toward Bahamut’s mouth without any shaking.

Seeing the playful expression of the dragon as he savored the tea, Leeha managed to smile.

“I see. Haha, it’s been a while.”

It couldn’t possibly be fine.

In fact, the very need for such actions indicated how serious it was. Bahamut accepted his greeting with a bittersweet yet kind smile.

“I’ve heard the stories from Alexander and Bailephus. You went through a lot, I heard.”

“No, sir. It was Bailephus who went through the most. Not to mention Blaugrunn-ssi and Zelreja-nim too.”

Suppressing the thought ‘The Lord must have suffered the most,’ Leeha kept himself from revealing what he knew.

Having already heard from Kijung about Bluebeard, Leeha could surmise.

Did they have to trade Bluebeard’s abdominal wound for Bahamut’s ‘left arm’?

‘Even if it wasn’t a small wound, losing an arm is a totally different story. Damn, and clueless users are just whining about balance!’
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Bahamut gazed at Leeha momentarily.

He did not lose his smile.

“‘Laputa’ is somewhere even I haven’t been. It seems to be quite astonishing.”

“Is that so? I happen to have the authorization to go there. Eventually—when I return to that place, it would be great if the Lord could accompany me.”

“Hoho, indeed. That would be wonderful.”

A floating teacup tilted slightly towards Bahamut’s lips. After wetting his throat, he spoke again.

“You probably already know.”

“Yes, I’ve heard that Tiamat has awakened.”

“But she isn’t in her complete state yet. She’s not fully awakened yet.”

“Can the Lord sense that?”

Kijung had completely crushed one of the dragon heads.

Yet, Tiamat had risen like this?

Leeha heard about it through Blaugrunn’s whispers and numerous times from Bailephus.

Still, Leeha wanted to confirm, and Bahamut nodded.

“Although it’s practically the first time I’ve sensed Tiamat in my entire existence, I can tell. She has awakened. However… something must have gone wrong.”

“Could it be during the summoning phase… or rather, the unsealing phase? If the dragon head used in that phase got damaged, could that be possible?”

“Mm? Ah, yes. That human called Holy Knight damaged Kuzgunak’sh’s head, right?”

“Yes! That’s what I heard.”

“Since I don’t know the extent of the damage, I can’t answer definitively. If it had been broken into two or three pieces, I’d be certain but…”

Leeha also couldn’t provide an answer.


He heard that Kijung smashed the dragon head with a shield.

The brain inside would have been sufficiently destroyed, but it likely wouldn’t be shattered into two or three pieces.

“The important thing is that she has already awakened, and the Chromatic Dragon tribe is trying to compensate for that incompleteness.”

“Pardon?”

Leeha then understood why Alexander and Bailephus left as soon as they arrived.

“Onyx is rallying the Chromatic clan. He himself is personally leading them.”

The black dragon Onyx, a type of Chromatic Dragon.

If the current elder of the Chromatic Dragons is rallying them!

It was almost certain that the Chromatic Dragons would gather soon.

“Pardon? Onyx is?”

However, Leeha couldn’t believe it. That could only be known by those who had met Onyx.

He was a devious creature who wanted to become the king of the Chromatic Dragons.

* * *

“I found it strange as well. That guy should be the one most relieved that Tiamat hasn’t become whole.”

“Exactly. That desire—or perhaps an instinct—is there? Some sort of primal urge that all dragons must serve their king—”

“They would sense that Tiamat has awakened. But instinct only takes them that far. Following or not is each dragon’s freedom.”

“So―”

“Rational dragons naturally follow the strongest.”

There was no compulsion.

However, the strength of the beings born as ‘kings’ of each dragon type was on a different level from ordinary dragons.


Thus, serving those qualified as kings. In this regard, metal and Chromatic Dragons were no different.

“Then, might there not be another reason for Onyx to rally the Chromatic Dragons?”

Leeha pointed out something that even Bahamut found odd.

“Exactly. Assuming he intends to kill Tiamat and remain the leader of the Chromatic Dragons makes more sense. In other words, he would subdue the Chromatic Dragons by force and then cross the sea with them. By killing their incomplete king himself, proving his own qualifications as the true leader.”

“That’s good! It would be favorable for us if they fought amongst themselves—”

“No.”

Leeha surmised that the scenario Bahamut’s AI couldn’t predict probably didn’t exist. Instead, Bahamut might have anticipated scenarios even beyond those Leeha could imagine.

“Think about who Tiamat is with right now.”

Would all the chromatic dragons really cross the sea? If so, what would happen?

“… It’s Bluebeard.”

“And there’s also Ghibrid and the Vampire Queen. I want to point to them as one of the reasons Tiamat isn’t whole.”

Leeha listened to Bahamut’s words and bit his lower lip.

Indeed, wasn’t Faust capable of commanding a significant number of Lich Dragons?

If Bluebeard and Ghibrid worked together on what Igor, Pyro, and Faust had accomplished, how much more could they achieve?

‘Labatt… That dragon had become as strong as Bailephus. Just by being with Faust. If an Onyx-level dragon turned into a Lich Dragon, coupled with Faust’s mana—’

Even among Ancients of the same rank, the difference was considerable.

Faust alone could bridge the gap between the red dragon Labatt and the Gold Dragon Bailephus.

Then, what could become of an Onyx dragon, which was originally stronger than Bailephus?

“That’s why Bailephus hurriedly left, right? Judging by the warm mana still lingering…”

Blaugrunn, too, looked around gravely.


Leeha thought the faint remnant he sensed with his 〈Perceptive Eyes〉 was indeed Bailephus’s mana.

Bahamut looked at Leeha with a satisfied expression.

“Ha, ha, that’s right, Blaugrunn. Your ability to read mana has become almost as good as before.”

“Of course! As the Lord instructed— I learned hand-to-hand combat directly from Zelreja-nim.”

Blaugrunn, who never once defied Bahamut in her life, complained about the rigorous training she underwent.

Leeha realized that there was definitely something wrong with Bahamut’s body.

“Active movement accelerates physical growth. While you possess Adult-level knowledge and magic application skills, your mana and bodily development lag behind. That’s why I entrusted you to Zelreja.”

“Lo-Lord!”

Blaugrunn was in awe of Bahamut’s concern for her growth, but for Leeha, it was different.

‘So directly? No. Middle Earth doesn’t give such straightforward hints. There are no such explanations or guided growth. This feels almost like…’

It seemed like they were in a hurry. Why?

There could only be one reason: lacking the strength to face the enemy.

Bahamut essentially admitted officially they were at a disadvantage.

‘If it were just that, it would be fortunate, but maybe—’

Could Bahamut be foreseeing another future?

Leeha shook his head vigorously, stopping the worst possible scenario in his mind. That must never happen.

‘I must prevent Bahamut’s death.’

“So, what should we do?!”

Leeha asked urgently.

“There are two options. One is to kill the incomplete Tiamat first.”

Bahamut responded.

Leeha could faintly guess what the remaining option might be.

“The other is to stop the unification of the chromatic dragons.”

“Killing the Onyx is essential, at the very least.”

If they killed the Onyx, the chromatic dragons might still congregate, but they wouldn’t try to cross the sea to the New Continent first.

Due to their extreme reluctance to leave their lairs, the dragons would likely wait for Tiamat to come and prove her strength.

This way, they could avoid variables like Bluebeard and Ghibrid.

Though they would still ultimately have to face Tiamat, at least they could rule out the problems the Onyx could cause.

“What about Alexander and Bailephus…?”

“They have gone to the territory of the chromatic dragons. They said they would take the chance to kill the Onyx amid the gathering of more than fifteen chromatic dragons.”

“Fifteen…”

Leeha sighed.

No matter the method, it wouldn’t be an easy task.

‘Wait a minute. Come to think of it.’

Did Lark know that Tiamat had awakened?

The fact that he was moving with Shin Nara was also known to Leeha. However, to what extent had they acquired information, and how much had Lark grown?

Leeha opened the friends list, but both of them were logged out.

So, who should he seek out at this point?

“Bahamut-nim, then I will go as well.”

Leeha hastily slung the Black Bass over his shoulder.

Blaugrunn, who had been deep in thought, looked at Leeha with a puzzled expression.

“A path where neither judgment can be said to be correct. Think carefully.”

“Yes. If it is a path without a correct answer, it means that ‘any path’ can be the correct answer.”

Bahamut spoke with a worried face. It was a rare expression for someone usually so playful.

Leeha gripped the Black Bass, thinking of the familiar and grandfatherly Bahamut of the past.

If there was no way?

“Even if it’s the third path.”

Create a way.

Listening to Leeha’s words, Bahamut nodded. Leeha teleported immediately with Blaugrunn.

Their destination was the New Continent.

“Ha Leeha?”

A red-haired woman opened her eyes wide upon seeing Leeha. He gave her a light nod before speaking.

“Ram Hwayeon! I need to ask―”

“When are you leaving? Still in the game?”

“―Huh?”

No, he tried to.

If only Leeha hadn’t forgotten something as significant as his life in Middle Earth.

“The wedding is the day after tomorrow!”

“Oh, ah!?”

It wasn’t just about Ram Hwayeon but the upcoming Ram Long Family wedding, which was prominently invited under the name of Ram Long Group.

With less than two full days remaining, Leeha had only one option.

“I’ll leave now! We’ll talk over the phone!”

The information needed by Ram Hwayeon?

It could only be asked in Hong Kong.

Leeha hastily teleported to Gaza City.

Blaugrunn was faithfully following behind but didn’t complain.

Watching the dragon, who had been assisting him until the end without a word of complaint, Leeha felt somewhat guilty. He had been too busy moving around without even a proper conversation.

“Blaugrunn, I’m really sorry. I need to log out for a moment.”

Blaugrunn looked up at Leeha with a dejected expression, like a puppy left alone at home.

“It will take a few days again, right? If Ha Leeha-nim isn’t around, I can’t even come up with an excuse to avoid Zelreja-nim’s sparring practice….”

“So until then― um, here!”

Leeha rummaged through his bag and pulled out a small glass bottle. It seemed to be there, yet it wasn’t. Like an optical illusion, it appeared when you moved your gaze but disappeared when you tried to look directly.

“A Laputa gift! I was waiting to receive―”

“Research with this. Will that do?”

The item he had prepared to give as a gift!

Although he wanted to give it in a more relaxed situation, there was no time for that now. Besides, it was clear that Blaugrunn didn’t mind waiting.

“Yes! Of course! Absolutely! As expected!”

Watching Blaugrunn jump around, Leeha felt an inexplicable fatherly affection. Then, he was embarrassed.

“How old would I need to be to have such an adult child?”

Moreover, Blaugrunn was modeled to be thousands of years old.

Leeha chuckled to himself as he prepared to log out.
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Leeha exited the arrival hall with bleary eyes. He logged out of Middle Earth at 11 AM Korean time. Although he was exhausted, he did not want to risk making the mistake of missing the wedding.

Leeha put on the most formal clothes he had and headed to the airport.

These were, of course, the clothes he bought while shopping with the Ram sisters in preparation for meeting Chairman Ram.

At least so far, it had seemed to be a very good choice.

“Even good clothes can be a hassle… What kind of suit is this fragile?”

The issue was that, thinking he would return the same day, he did not pack a change of clothes, and thus he wore the suit straight onto the plane.

The higher the quality of the suit, the weaker its durability tends to be.

By the time Leeha exited the arrival hall after a flight of about three hours, his bleary eyes matched the pitiful state of the suit.

“I should have just worn a tracksuit. How can clothes get this wrinkled? I even meticulously ironed it because it felt too precious to just leave in the wardrobe!”

As Leeha sighed and regretted, a woman looked at him with a horrified expression.

“People might think you got into a fight on the plane. What happened? Why is your suit so wrinkled?”

“Ram Hwayeon!? How did you— well, the economy class seats were so cramped. Haha, I tried to sleep on the way, but I got buried in the seat— and it was so hot, I sweated a bit…”

“That’s why you should’ve just taken the private jet I offered! Geez, just get out already!”

Ram Hwayeon strode toward Leeha , who was lingering at the arrival gate.

Several bodyguards surrounded her, effectively blocking the nearby reporters from taking any photos.

“But how did you know I was coming? I only mentioned which flight I was taking.”

“Isn’t that the same as telling me the arrival time?”

“Oh, right. So, I just asked you to tell me the location…”

“Shut up and get in!”

Ram Hwayeon, fuming, got into the car.


With an embarrassed expression, Leeha also got into her car.

In the backseat of the black van sat Leeha , Ram Hwayeon, and her bodyguards. As the car started moving, Leeha could finally gauge her mood.

‘Why is she so angry?’

The wedding was the next day anyway, and even though it was already late in the afternoon, arriving a day early was pretty commendable, right?

Moreover, he even sent her a ‘message’ before leaving, sparing some time to ask questions about Middle Earth!

‘I thought she’d be touched, seeing how well I managed my time…’

Unaware that everything he thought was well-done had actually annoyed Ram Hwayeon, the car departed from the airport parking lot.

“Wow, it’s always nice to see this place. But it’s like already midsummer here? I think my last visit during winter was perfect. That’s why my clothes were soaked with sweat… ahem…”

Admiring the view through the window, Leeha glanced at Ram Hwayeon.

Their eyes met, her glaring at him with fierce eyes, he quickly fell silent.

She wore a sleeveless dress with high heels, her legs crossed while looking at him.

During the last trip to Hong Kong, Ram Hwayeon generally wore business-appropriate outfits.

Such a degree of dress-up was only for meeting her father.

In other words, today, she had put considerable effort into choosing her clothes since morning, and Leeha’s indifferent reaction was why she was upset, a fact he hadn’t even guessed.

“Oh… Come to think of it, it’s a wedding. What’s the culture like for weddings in Hong Kong? Do I need to give a gift or something?”

He had exchanged about one million won at the airport in a hurry!

He didn’t have particularly fond memories of Ram Peng. Although he was treated at the hospital he managed, almost everything had Ram Hwayeon’s influence on it.

Moreover, he had made a significant contribution during Ram Hwajung’s kidnapping incident caused by poor security under Ram Peng’s management in Hong Kong.

Even so, Leeha did not want to appear lacking in the eyes of the Ram family, so he had spent that much.

“You don’t have to give any money, you’re not an ordinary guest. You’re an invited guest.”


That was from a common person’s standpoint.

As an invited guest, it was a different matter. Leeha still did not know.

“Still, going empty-handed feels a bit… Wouldn’t it be better to have something as a symbol of congratulations? Oh! Do they have any lucky numbers? 3? 7?”

“For congratulations, 8 is a lucky number in Hong Kong.”

“Eight? Great! Eighty—”

“And it should be an even number.”

Listening to Ram Hwayeon’s words, Leeha quickly finished his calculations.

If it was 8,888 Hong Kong dollars, it would be about 1.3 million Korean won. Though it was a bit more expensive than he initially thought, he had sufficient funds to cover it.

“Alright, then—”

“If it’s just a regular person’s congratulatory money, the amount wouldn’t matter, but if it’s for a guest… especially since you’re the chairman’s invited guest, you would need at least 888,888 Hong Kong dollars. Since you’re here by the chairman’s invitation, it might even go up by two more units. So, I’m just telling you not to bother with it.”

“Ei… eight hundred eighty-eight… thousand?”

“If you could schedule a lunch with the chairman by paying that amount, there would be a queue from Hong Kong to all over the world. Isn’t that obvious?”

About 130 million Korean won.

Leeha wasn’t without money. Besides the significant funds he possessed in City Gazuah, he had items worth hundreds of millions, and even auction-worthy items surpassing billions in Middle Earth.

However, he couldn’t use his funds in this manner.

Leeha just realized once again that the worlds they lived in operated on different scales.

Seeing his gloomy expression, Ram Hwayeon’s eyebrows twitched even more. Each time Leeha showed a clueless look, it infuriated her.

‘I… I cleared all my evening schedules three days ago!’

The root of her anger!

She had refrained from whispering or pushing him, expecting him to come a bit earlier on his own.


Struggling not to show it and enduring those agonizing times!

When she saw him on that new continent, how flustered she had been. Trusting him, she hadn’t even bothered to check the friends list.

Though he departed immediately, Ram Hwayeon’s mood had already soured significantly.

Moreover, the fact that he contacted her for an investigation request about Middle Earth angered her more.

Ram Hwayeon’s honest feelings were that she didn’t even want to pick him up from the airport.

However, seeing his crumpled suit further irritated her.

Seeing his gloomy face even now, she wondered if she had been too harsh.

She wanted to tease him and deflate his spirit, but instead, meeting him filled her with frustration and sadness.

“Ahhhh! This is so annoying!”

“Huh!? Wha— Why all of a sudden—”

“Don’t make that kind of defeated puppy face! I’ve called for the hotel’s dry cleaning service, so hand over your suit as soon as we arrive! And take a look at this on the way, here, the Middle Earth information you asked for!”

Ram Hwayeon quickly took out documents from her bag and handed them to Leeha.

As Leeha accepted the documents with a blank expression, she shook her head and shouted.

“Seriously! You really! Do I have to take care of everything from one to ten for you? If that’s the case, why don’t you just—”

Then she suddenly closed her mouth.

Leeha looked at her, who had been pouring out words frantically, for a moment.

Feeling thankful and apologetic at the same time, he tried to express something, but because she abruptly stopped talking, he missed his chance.

Leeha cautiously examined Ram Hwayeon’s expression.

“Ram Hwayeon…?”

Her face was reddish.

Only then did Leeha realize and smiled sheepishly. As her face turned even redder, Leeha added a word.

“Hehe, even Hong Kong people seem to find it hot, huh.”

“Yaahhhhh—!”

Ram Hwayeon lunged at Leeha and tugged his hair hard.

A fight, hotter than the ban under the blazing sun, unfolded inside the van.

* * *

“Owww, my hair got entirely pulled out.”

Leeha muttered, touching his hair while wearing a gown in the hotel room.

As soon as they arrived, Ram Hwayeon had snatched his suit away, and now he was left alone.

‘She said it would be three more hours before she’s free, so do I have free time until then? Besides, it’s surprising that Ram Hwajung is still in Middle Earth.’

He had felt something was amiss since she wasn’t at the airport.

He expected Ram Hwajung to launch a powerful tackle as usual, but she wasn’t there.

She still hadn’t logged out of Middle Earth for over 20 hours, according to Ram Hwayeon’s testimony.

“She hasn’t returned since disappearing with Arzenmacht… Tsk, fighting on equal terms with Pyro must have really hurt her pride. And that was such a long time ago.”

Leeha had a rough idea about Pyro’s 〈Flame Mage〉. However, seeing it firsthand had a different impact.

Leeha newly realized how significant it was that the descendants of heroes had joined the Demon King’s army.

Based on Ram Hwajung’s testimony, Ram Hwayeon had compiled new data, organizing not only key users in the Demon King’s army but also allies.

Leeha’s focus was on Lark and Shin Nara.

He knew they were acting together.

Before Shin Nara left with Lark, she had given a simple hint to Bobae. However, their current whereabouts were unknown.

“The Sacred Knights and even the Virtue Knights haven’t spotted them. They weren’t found in the capitals of either Fibiel or Minis. Even with Ram Hwayeon’s search, they couldn’t be found… Should we have made a request to the Holy Grill?”

What on earth could they be doing?

Are they still together?

Do they know what’s happening in Middle Earth?

“They should at least be aware that Tiamat has awakened. I doubt Lark wouldn’t have noticed.”

The incident caused by Kijung and Lee Jiwon in the center of the New Continent had become quite a rumor in Middle Earth.

Few people knew exactly what happened there, but the phrase, “A tremendous radiance burst out from the place where Bluebeard and Ghibrid were, and Lee Jiwon and Kijung came back alive,” caused significant shockwaves.

“If it’s Lark, he would’ve noticed it relates to Tiamat just from hearing that. Because he’s aware Pyrot-Cocri is in the North.”

So, what is he doing now?

Why isn’t he making contact?

If the Queen of the Chromatic Dragons had awakened, people related to the Metal Dragons, namely Alexander, Ram Hwajung, and himself—one of these partners of the Metal Dragons—should have been contacted…

“Is he still unable to fully handle that sword?”

Quite some time had passed. During that period, what had he been doing? Leeha couldn’t help but feel frustrated.

“Chiyou’s location is also unclear. Tsk, no matter how outstanding Ram Hwayeon is, finding her would be impossible.”

Information about Chiyou, Kyle, Elizabeth, and Brown was also missing.

At this point, the only “people” aware that Chiyou had staged a revolt and broken away from the Demon King’s army to become a third force were Chiyou, Igor, Pyro, Faust, and the Goople employees monitoring them.

Leeha sifted through the documents before sprawling out on the bed.

Spending two days here would mean ten days had passed in Middle Earth. During that time, how many more things would happen?

“There’s not much I can do right now either… First, should I wait for Kijung? Oh right. I should also check out that place.”

Leeha sprang up from the bed.

He couldn’t just sit idle while Kijung built his power over 50 days and joined the Nine Cardinals Committee.

That’s something Leeha’s personality would never allow.

And there’s still a material he hadn’t consumed yet.

“The Guardian Spirit of the Dark Elves…”

He needed to verify the spirits with the attributes of fear and darkness, other than the dark ones. Leeha had already chosen his travel companion for this journey.

“Prea… I wonder if she gathered any other information during this time? It would be best if she could find out what Chiyou and Arcane Sniper are up to.”

His concern for Prea shifted to worries about Chiyou, which in turn transformed into thoughts about Kyle.

Luger had also acquired a hidden skill.

Leeha had no particular worry about Kidd. Even if Luger or himself was slightly behind for now, Kidd wasn’t a user who couldn’t catch up.

“Though I hate to admit it, in terms of intelligence, he’s—no, he’s as good as me. Eventually, Luger and Kidd will become stronger than Kyle from the Saur Land incident.”

That thought wasn’t exactly reassuring.

The attack Kyle displayed in Saur Land…

It had just been a “normal hit”!

Could being stronger than Arcane Sniper without using skills even be a point of pride?

“Tsk… It’s troubling.”

Leeha read and reread the documents provided by Ram Hwayeon, determined to absorb every new bit of information.

Simultaneously, all the users Leeha had thought of or mentioned were struggling in Middle Earth.

“Parnese!? The Cardinal who isn’t Tusculani—”

“Shhh! Be quiet!”

Having finally discovered the head of the Anti-Pope faction, Kijung was also troubled.
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Alongside Cardinal Romero, there were two more NPC cardinals included in the Conclave voting for the new Pope.

One was from Tusculani, who had been brought down by Kijung, and the other was Parnese.

“But the faction was too small to be considered significant—how did they establish themselves so quickly?”

“Politics always follow power. When the Tusculani faction came to an end, the cardinals who were pushed out were looking for a new center of gravity. Aside from His Holiness, the only one with an established faction was Parnese.”

How much time and effort did it take to build a faction?

Although Parnese had received fewer than ten votes in the Conclave, absorbing the scattered remnants of the Tusculani faction wasn’t a difficult task, given the existing foundation.

Kijung nodded as he listened to Raphaela’s explanation.

Raphaela burst into laughter at Kijung’s student-like expression, as if he was attending a lecture.

“Of course, since it’s a game, it would’ve happened faster. But it’s not without foundation.”

“I see. Then what about the current dynamics?”

“Currently, the Nine-member Cardinal Committee—’C9’—comprises three Pope Faction cardinals, one neutral, and five Anti-Pope Parnese faction cardinals.”

“… So there aren’t even four Pope Faction cardinals.”

“There’s a rising faction for a third force. Ah, you could say the role Parnese played between Romero and Tusculani has been taken over by a new NPC.”

Middle Earth desired a three-way battle!

In other words, Parnese had assumed the role of the old Tusculani, while the new, smaller faction of cardinals had taken on the role of Parnese. The intention to have factions constantly checking each other and forcing players into endless tightrope walking to enhance the game’s difficulty and enjoyment was understandable.

“… So what should we do?”

The problem was that the difficulty had increased so much that it was hard to keep up.

Kijung sighed deeply.

Raphaela didn’t find it easy either.

Despite being affiliated with Minis due to her “Saintess” nickname, she had many acquaintances among Ezwen’s users and NPCs.


Right after Kijung requested, she used all her information-gathering skills to grasp the current situation, but it felt as overwhelming as it did for Kijung.

“For the upcoming election, it’s predicted that one Pope Faction position will decrease while one Parnese faction position will increase. If that happens, as His Holiness mentioned to Master Kay, the dynamic would shift to 3:6. And the cardinal strongly being pushed by the Parnese faction is Cardinal Sergio.”

“Sergio…”

Kijung bit his lower lip upon hearing the name.

An exemplary NPC who became a cardinal despite looking as young as Kijung.

When reporting the full resurrection of Tiamat to the Pope, he was the foremost in criticizing Kijung.

His logical completeness and drive from his young and brilliant mind was enough to awe even the Pope Faction cardinals, and Kijung knew this well.

“Master Kay probably knows how remarkable he is, huh? Anyway, if the dynamic breaks down that much, the neutral cardinals won’t try to maintain the balance by sticking with the Pope Faction faction. If they completely side with Parnese…”

In the worst case, the result could be a 2:7 dynamic.

What if Parnese gained not only the majority but also exceeded the two-thirds support?

As Kijung held his breath, Raphaela spoke in a very low voice.

“Pope Urban II would become a puppet. There’s even a risk of His Holiness taking a mid-term retirement, despite the lifetime tenure of the Pope position.”

The immediate issue wasn’t about whether Kijung could become a C9 elected cardinal.

If those corrupting Ezwen from within were allowed to spread, all the efforts of the users who had built rapport with the current Pope could go down the drain.

‘Not just me… Leeha hyung would be affected too?’

Kijung swallowed dryly. To think this incident could become so monumental!

He somewhat regretted confidently stepping forward based on his achievements. Raphaela detected this subtle change in atmosphere.

She smiled faintly.

“Therefore, ensuring that Master Kay is elected as part of ‘C9’ is crucial. Of course, the strong competition would be Sergio. Additionally, convincing the neutral cardinals not to side with the Anti-Pope faction and causing an incident that would significantly impact the entire Parnese faction is important. If that happens, it won’t just be a 5:4 reversal but potentially greater. The most critical part is addressing all three issues simultaneously…”

“Can we do it? I’d rather fight Ghibrid; this is…”


Kijung scratched his head vigorously.

With Raphaela’s help, he understood the dynamics. He had set goals on what needed to be done. However, the approach remained unclear.

Raphaela smiled encouragingly.

“You can do it. I’ll help. Since it’s a Conclave, you must exert influence over the cardinals, which takes time and effort… But with C9, influence and popularity among ordinary believers will have a significant impact. With the combined strength of the ‘Exorcism Cardinal’ and the ‘Saintess’, it’s not impossible.”

“Ah, ah! That’s right! It’s not a vote among cardinals!?”

A voting system different from Conclave!

Raphaela aimed to dive into that very niche.

Since many users among the general congregation held a significant presence, the impact could be substantial if two already renowned users campaigned together.

“Raphaela… I am so moved—”

“And once Master Kay ascends to C9, we can naturally intervene in the position of Grand Abbess of Minis.”

“—What? Oh? B-but I was talking about the diocesan position in Fibiel—”

“Ha, that’s not a very valuable position! You can’t compare a regular abbey to a ‘Grand’ abbey! It’s only natural that my nation, Minis, is better! I’ll thoroughly devote all my fame and connections to this matter! If things go well, I might even become the first female Cardinal! If not, I’ll secure the position of Grand Abbess of Minis! At the very least, you must guarantee me the Grand Abbess position of Fibiel!”

Who could possibly call her a Saintess?

Raphaela’s eyes blazed with the same intensity as the “King Maker”, the seasoned election strategist.

Though a sense of unease swept over Kijung with thoughts like ‘Isn’t this something we better avoid?’, it concurrently burgeoned into immense trust.

This wasn’t one-sided; it was a mutual exchange, making it a mere transaction. And transactions that followed a ‘post-pay’ system were always welcome.

“Alright, let’s do it.”

Kijung extended his hand.

“48 days and 7 hours left until the vote. I’ll definitely secure a spot for Master Kay in the ‘9 Cardinal Committee.'”

Raphaela grasped his hand.


The two individuals, aiming for the first-ever user member of C9, beyond Middle Earth’s first user Cardinal, exchanged determined glances.

* * *

『Ha Leeha ultimately didn’t manage to get the key to Laputa.』

“Hmm… So there’s still a hurdle to cross.”

『According to Blaugrunn, that’s the case.』

Alexander felt relieved as he listened to Bailephus.

After all, he faced something more pressing than a trip to Laputa.

“Are there five Chromatic Dragons in total?”

『No. I wouldn’t be able to sense the aura of Onyx either. There may be Chromatic Clans with powers similar to mine, so it’s more conservative to estimate seven. There’s a high possibility of a 2:7 battle.』

As they discussed the movements of the Chromatic Dragons, Alexander and Bailephus flew towards the southeastern region of Minis.

They had already entered the ‘territory’ of the dragons and were aware that their actions were being monitored.

“If Onyx gathers all the dragons he has collected so far—”

『It won’t be 2:7 but rather 2:15, or even more.』

“Huh, it’s been a while since I’ve felt the thrill of a fight.”

『Are you confident, partner? Onyx and the Chromatic Clans are not to be underestimated.』

While Bailephus voiced his concern, Alexander merely tensed up but remained unafraid.

He wouldn’t have come this far if he lacked confidence.

The number one ranked user was opting for the surest and easiest way to stop Tiamat.

“I am aware. But we don’t need to kill all the Chromatic Dragons. We only have to target one.”

『Indeed.』

Just killing Onyx would suffice.

Then, at least, the Chromatic Dragons wouldn’t consider crossing over to the New Continent to meet Tiamat.

Tiamat, alongside Bluebeard and Ghibrid, posed a great danger.

If the Chromatic Dragons crossed the sea in large numbers, they might discover a way to make the incomplete Tiamat whole again.

In such a case, it would be better to lure Tiamat to the Old Continent.

At least Bluebeard and Ghibrid wouldn’t be able to recklessly come here.

When Tiamat crossed to the Old Continent alone, Alexander planned to gather the full force of the Metal Clans to eliminate the incomplete dragon.

“Shall we begin then?”

『I haven’t unleashed a breath in another dragon’s territory in ages.』

“Huh. I will execute justice.”

─────────────…….

When chunks of mana began gathering fiercely in front of Bailephus’s mouth, flashes of light sparkled from various places.

It was because the chromatic dragons who had already been watching them hurriedly appeared.

『”Kyaaa―!”』

『”How dare you intrude here, filthy metallic trash!”』

『”Ancient Dragon Bailephus! Have you truly lost your mind?!”』

The chromatic dragons roared as they revealed themselves.

Seven in total, not counting Onyx, appeared with dazzling brilliance.

There were even two ancient-level dragons with power similar to Bailephus. This fight was not going to be easy by any means.

“We first evade and buy some time, Bailephus.”

Pwahaaaa────────!

The white-fire breath of the ancient gold dragon spewed out.

The chromatic dragons that had been flying toward Alexander hurriedly switched to evasive maneuvers.

The dragons chased after them swiftly.

Although a sudden aerial battle broke out above Minis, neither side suffered significant damage.

Although breaths were expelled and magic was used, they either dodged or ignored it, and direct clashes were rare.

This was a fortunate situation for the Alexander and Bailephus combo.

Their target was solely Onyx! They were not engaging in an all-out war with these dragons.

The plan was to lure Onyx out, use the 〈Fusion〉 skill, and quickly destroy Onyx’s dragon heart.

Their plan seemed to be going smoothly. At least, attracting the attention of the chromatic dragons and luring them here was going according to plan.

『”The dragons are gathering, Alexander.”』

“Hmm… but Onyx is not showing up. Do we need to cause more havoc?”

However, even after 30 minutes of aerial combat, onyx had not appeared.

The initial seven chromatic dragons had now increased to eleven.

Alexander and Bailephus had been working together for so long that they almost felt like one. It was impossible for one or two regular dragons to chase them effectively.

But when the number grew over ten, problems started arising even with their evasive maneuvers.

No matter how quickly and erratically they flew, magic attacks were launched from five different directions, and two or three of them even had homing capabilities.

Boom──, boom───!

The magic used by the chromatic dragons struck Bailephus’s barrier. 〈Absolute Barrier〉 was already showing cracks.

『”It’s only a matter of time before the barrier collapses. What will you do, Alexander?”』

“Kuhm… We can’t use Fusion now. There’s no point in revealing our cards before Onyx shows up!”

『”But without Fusion, it will be impossible to hold out any longer.”』

They couldn’t effectively counterattack.

If they focused on counterattacking, their movement would be limited, and even if they managed to kill a few adult-level chromatic dragons, Alexander and Bailephus would be in grave danger.

Knowing this fact was why they had been solely stalling for time until now! Alexander glanced around in frustration.

“… Didn’t they say Onyx is a dragon who loves to take action? Even though we’ve come into his territory, why hasn’t he shown himself?”

『”… I don’t know either. He is a cunning dragon, and even if he thought this was a trap, I expected him to appear to kill me regardless!”』

Bailephus was an ancient-level dragon referred to as ‘Elder’ among the Metallic Dragon lineage.

The chromatic dragons also knew this.

So, if Bailephus appeared alone without backup, considering the impact of his magic as well as his voice on the Metallic Dragon lineage, onyx should have taken the risk to come out.

Even if he thought it was a trap, it was this terrifying trait of Onyx to show up with enough force to crush the trap entirely.

Alexander too had judged this based on the information he had heard from Bahamut and Bailephus.

‘But why… does he already know my plan? No, even if he just judged it as a secret skill, he should have shown up if he’s an AI.’

───────────────!

Another spell struck Bailephus’s barrier.
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Even Alexander had to admit it now—his plan and trap had been seen through.

Onyx would not appear anymore.

If the appearance of Bailephus couldn’t lure him out, then no method would ever be able to draw him out in the future.

“If it’s come to this, I’ll need to capture the Chromatic Dragons one by one— No, that won’t work. To catch them now that they have formed a group, all-out war is the only way… If the entire Metal tribe mobilizes—”

The north would be left unguarded.

Bluebeard might appear at any moment to awaken Pyrot-Cocri.

『Alexander!』

“… We’re turning back, partner. It seems our current plan is insufficient.”

『Wise decision.』

Bailephus immediately turned around.

Although the Chromatic Dragons’ flight was by no means slow, they couldn’t catch up to the Alexander-Bailephus combo, especially since they had user allies.

Even if they used a spatial barrier to chase them, these two were no longer who they were in the past.

Having trained extensively in the impossible-to-teleport eastern New Continent, their aerial combat skills surpassed their past selves—or even Kuzgnak’shii.

『Running away, shame of the Metal tribe!』

『Now that our Queen is awake, it’s only a matter of time before we annihilate your kind!』

The Chromatic Dragons exhaled their breaths, but Alexander and Bailephus effortlessly dodged and headed out of the spatial barrier.

Without utilizing a physical barrier that could restrict their moves, trapping them was impossible.

Swoosh───!

As soon as they exited the barrier, Bailephus used spatial movement.

The turbulent airspace of Minis, filled with various spells and dragon roars, turned quiet in an instant.


The Chromatic Dragons searched their surroundings briefly.

『Nothing is detected under Mana Detection.』

『Same with the search. Nothing around here.』

After ensuring with magic that no additional intruders were present and that Bailephus’s move wasn’t another trap, they finally landed on the ground.

And there, a brilliant purple light flashed.

─────!!!!

What appeared was an old man with disheveled black hair flying in the wind.

* * *

“Did they leave?”

『Yes. It seems they tried to lure the Elder.』

『We sensed no willingness to fight. Judging by the surroundings… Did they really think they could face the Elder alone?』

“Ha, how ridiculous. Even if a severely injured Bahamut came along, Bailephus wouldn’t be able to defeat me, yet he really came alone.”

『Yes, that’s correct. While there’s a chance something was hidden, nothing was detected by Mana Detection—』

“Enough.”

Onyx silenced the hurriedly responding Chromatic Dragon. Turning his head, Onyx surveyed the Dragons and frowned.

“Once again, what that person said is true.”

Though Onyx clicked his tongue in displeasure, the atmosphere among the Dragons was quite different. They began to praise “that person.”

『What a blessing we’ve received, elder!』

『Indeed! Along with the Queen’s revival, having such a wisdom source among us is a truly good omen!』

The Elder of the Chromatic Dragons, Onyx, shouted at them with an annoyed expression.


“Be quiet! You fools… Do you want to be happy being manipulated by a single human with all your experience? If you really thought this absurd charge was a ‘trap’, you should be suspecting that human might be colluding with Bailephus…”

Swoosh────!

Cutting off Onyx’s words, the purple light flashed once again. This time, a man appeared suddenly next to the old man with black hair.

He clapped his hands while laughing.

“Kyaa, as I thought, I was right! Alexander showing up alone, that’s a hundred percent—no, a thousand percent that something’s going on. Honestly, I even considered the possibility of a ‘long-distance sniper’ being around, but that doesn’t seem to be the case… It’s almost confirmed to be a new skill. A skill potent enough to take down ten or so Chromatic Dragons alone and then come after Elder Onyx.”

His voice was brash, and his actions exaggerated Onyx looked at him as if he were a bug, but the other Chromatic Dragons around them began to laugh, as if they shared in his amusement.

“…… What are you even chasing me for? Revealing yourself won’t end well for you. Plus, there’s still a spatial barrier here. How did you break through it?”

Onyx stayed as cautious as possible.

Even though Tiamat had resurrected, Onyx, as an elder leading the Chromatic Dragon family, had every reason to be vigilant. Yet, the man merely shrugged as if utterly baffled.

“Ah, come on. You think a barrier like this can stop us? Yellow Dragons specialize in tracking and annihilation techniques, remember? I just used a little of that.”

“…… I’m asking how you used Yellow’s mana in the first place―”

“And it’s already been verified many times, so it’s quite disheartening you still doubt me, elder. If you continue this way, it might be hard for me to continue helping you.”

The man’s tone and expressions showed skill and familiarity. Onyx, who was intent on questioning him further, found nothing more to say.

The current situation where the man provided unilateral assistance to Onyx suggested that his power had become indispensable to the Chromatic Dragon family, including Onyx.

“…… Fine. Just consider it a verification of your abilities rather than suspicion.”

“Sure, I understand. I know well that Elder Onyx values abilities above all else.”

The man stood nonchalantly, using his sword as a cane.

That meant as long as he could show his abilities, such an attitude could be tolerated, and he was indeed demonstrating that capability.

“Alright. Let’s head back. Gather at the assembly point.”

Onyx turned and snapped his fingers. His presence disappeared instantly.


The Chromatic Dragons also began transforming into human forms one by one, preparing to teleport. One of them approached the man who had appeared suddenly.

“Can you go alone?”

“Teleport? Hmm, let’s just go together. If I go alone again, the Elder might throw a fit.”

“Haha, that’s unlikely. Even though we once fought for our lives, the Elder knows your importance better than anyone.”

“Tch, then he could treat me a bit better.”

As the man grumbled and shook his head, the Chromatic Dragon burst into laughter and prepared to teleport.

“How’s your woman doing?”

“She’s at the assembly point. So let’s hurry back.”

The man sheathed his sword.

A rainbow-colored afterimage followed the moving sword.

“I’m always impressed by your insight. Let’s go, Lark.”

The Chromatic Dragon called his name and cast the teleportation spell.

Lark was transported to the assembly point where Onyx and the Chromatic Dragons awaited.

About ten minutes after, in the desolate land where not much but passing scorpions lived, movement began again.

“Isn’t this a complete surp─prise!? Bihihit! Lark!? The Rainbow Knight!”

“…… Kikit, this is driving me crazy. We followed because Alexander was on the move and now this―…….”

Biyemi and Petyr, shaking off the sand that covered them, wore baffled expressions.

* * *

It had been quite some time since they began investigating the Chromatic Dragons’ movements.

Ever since the day Petyr accepted Kijung’s request, he had been moving around, prioritizing this mission over even logging out.

While tracking the movements of the Chromatic Dragons, there eventually came a time when their dragon lairs were completely empty, with no information to be had.

Whenever they received reports of a recent dragon raid or incidents involving Chromatic Dragons, they rushed to the scene but still, no useful information was obtained.

‘Kikit… Even with the information that Alexander had headed south, it took so much effort to find him.’

What were the odds of finding a Gold Dragon soaring through the sky?

If it weren’t for the skills of the assassin Petyr and the former assassin Biyemi, it would have been impossible.

After barely finding and tailing Alexander, they had lain low, waiting in hiding.

Hoping to gather even a shred of information wherever they could.

“Bihihit, what do we do now?”

“Hold on ― whoop, arggh…”

At Petyr’s question, Biyemi bent over, retching. Green liquid soon spewed from his mouth.

“Every time, that’s a surprise!”

“Whoosh… Kit, it’s unavoidable without stealth skills. If it weren’t for this item, we would have been detected by mana and killed.”

Even an assassin of Petyr’s caliber could evade a dragon’s mana detection as long as he stayed still.

So, what about Biyemi, the Venom Mage?

The fact that Biyemi could even move with Petyr in the first place was because of this.

If inhaled even once, it was a ‘poison’ that dropped not only mana but also HP to the level of surrounding animals.

If they inhaled the newly synthesized item, they would be reduced to a near-catatonic state, yet their sense of sight and hearing would remain intact.

“Kihe, keheke. I don’t know how I should report this?”

Why was Lark with the Chromatic Dragons, and why was he even helping them?

‘Judging by the way the Chromatic Dragons speak, it has been quite some time. Kiheit, it indicates that they’ve been closely working for quite a while now… But Lark definitely had some connection with Ha Leeha and the guild leader.’

Biyemi didn’t want to make a hasty judgment.

It was because he knew for a fact that Lark showed up and helped during the Pyrot-Cocri operation.

If it were another user, Biyemi wouldn’t have had any particular suspicion. But the one they were dealing with here was Lark.

“Buhihihi! It’s always fun to execute a traitor to humanity. There must be countless noble NPCs in Minis who want to put a bounty on Lark’s head. Even without Gwen’s help, I could chop his head off on my own.”

A figure belonging to the Virtue Knights, yet not welcomed even by his own country’s NPCs.

An individual capable of subjugating most of the paleo in the New Continent.

A person of skill but with dark schemes, making them hard to trust.

Even without Petyr’s additional remarks, Biyemi already knew this.

“Kihekit… Since Shin Nara seems to be with him, let’s postpone killing Lark… for now.”

“Fine, fine. Anyway, I’ve already ‘marked’ him. The longer we wait, the more fun the surprise party will be! Buhihihihit!”

Petyr unfolded a map.

On the map of Minis’ entire territory, a small dot was blinking. After confirming the target’s location, they started moving.

At the Chromatic Dragons’ assembly point, sacred Knights’ user Shin Nara sat with a grim expression.

* * *

The nightscape of Hong Kong was always an impressive sight.

Even Leeha, who had been dragged out of the hotel, found his eyes drawn to the night view rather than the food on the table.

“Aren’t you going to eat more?”

“I have a stomachache…”

However, the reason he was focused on the night view was not just because it was beautiful.

Leeha responded while rubbing his lower abdomen.

A lobster, bigger than Leeha’s head, lay split open but he couldn’t bring himself to touch it.

“Eat, oppa.”

Ram Hwajung, sitting next to Leeha, cut the lobster and speared it with a fork. It would normally be an affectionate gesture, but not for Leeha now.

The force of her recent ‘tackle’ was beyond imagination.

“O-Okay. I’ll eat it myself. By the way, Ram Hwajung, you seem taller.”

Although, it was closer to just her overall frame having gotten bigger.

Leeha didn’t continue the remark.

Maybe it was because she was at an age where she grew noticeably every day, but Ram Hwajung definitely looked taller compared to the last time he saw her.

Of course, it wasn’t just her height that had grown.

It was apparent she had gained weight overall, and with that she had charged at full speed for a body slam!

‘It’s cracked. It’s not broken, but it’s definitely cracked. Grr, when was the last time I felt this kind of pain?’

That was the extent of Leeha’s pain.

Even after achieving 100% synchronization in Middle Earth, he rarely experienced such bone-rattling pain!

“Of course. Hwajung is at an age where she should be growing.”

Ram Hwayeon responded while nodding, understanding none of Leeha’s thoughts.

The fork and knife in her hands moved like firearms in Leeha’s hands.

The silverware moved with a swift, smooth sound, never clinking against the plates.

“Wow…”

“What?”

“No, it’s just that watching you eat is like watching art. How can you move like that? I can’t even do that with chopsticks.”

“Well, I’ve been learning since I was four! It’s essential if you want to debut in high society!”

“Me too. Do it.”

Listening to Ram Hwayeon’s words, Ram Hwajung also began to handle the silverware almost as naturally as breathing.

Seeing their ingrained behavior and hearing terms like ‘high society,’ Leeha felt anew.

“You really seem like people from a different world. No, you actually are from a different world. To me…”
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These were people whom he would never have been able to approach if not for Middle Earth.

Just the fact that he was having a meal with them felt like a novel experience to Leeha.

“What?”

“Huh? Why?”

But depending on how one listened, it could be interpreted differently.

Ram Hwayeon was staring at Leeha more sharply than before.

“So? Are you saying you dislike it?”

“Huh? No! What, what are you talking about all of a sudden? Why would I dislike you, Ram Hwayeon?”

Leeha protested loudly as if he didn’t understand what she was saying, which made her demeanor soften.

She had cautious expectations.

“Well… then?”

If he didn’t dislike her, then what would his next answer be?

Ram Hwayeon was expecting that. Even Ram Hwajung’s knife paused for a moment, probably because she had the same thoughts as her unni.

“Huh? Then? What do you mean by then? I said I don’t dislike you.”

The problem was that only the involved parties didn’t realize it. As Ram Hwayeon glared at Leeha, Ram Hwajung split a lobster in half.

“Eat. Stupid.”

“Huh, what? Okay, okay—”

Leeha chewed on the lobster that was pushed into his mouth. Ram Hwayeon sighed and shook her head.

“Ugh, never mind. By the way, the suit you wore when you came here was already dry cleaned, so you should change into it tomorrow. That tuxedo you’re wearing now—”

“Ah, I borrowed this size, and it fits well.”


Leeha mumbled, chewing his food, and looked at his attire once again.

Despite being given on short notice, it fit perfectly on him.

Ram Hwajung tilted her head as she looked at Leeha.

“Yeah. Oppa’s size. Last time. Fi—”

“Hwajung!”

Ram Hwayeon hurriedly called her name, making her clam up.

Of course, there was only one reason why the suddenly prepared clothes fit him so well. Ram Hwayeon had jotted down all of Leeha’s sizes at the tailor shop when she bought him clothes last time.

‘There are several suits prepared for fitting… silly. If only he had come a few days earlier.’

Was the tuxedo he was wearing now a problem?

They had even prepared summer suits using various fabrics for the hot summer! With a boiling rage, Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha.

“Huh? Hehe, is something on my face?”

Leeha wiped around his mouth with a napkin.

Even with his silly actions and foolish smile, objectively he seemed immature, yet her heart still fluttered.

Ram Hwayeon took a sip of her white wine.

It was a sudden drink that even surprised Ram Hwajung next to her.

“How have you been recently?”

“What do you mean?”

“I know you’ve been busy running around Middle Earth… You don’t know anything about Shin Nara?”

That was what she barely managed to ask.

Even in Ram Hwayeon’s network, she couldn’t find Lark and Shin Nara. But could Shin Nara just disappear like this?


‘What was all that talk in Fibiel’s palace then? Could she really be wandering around with a man like Lark suddenly?’

Ram Hwayeon shook her head precisely for that reason.

Knowing that Shin Nara wasn’t someone like that instinctively, she wondered if Leeha knew something she didn’t.

But Leeha knew nothing as well.

“No, nothing at all. I haven’t contacted Nara for a long time. Whenever I check my friends’ list, her location is always hidden. What is she doing and where? According to Bobae of Byulcho Guild, they are friends, right? Anyway, Bobae said it was clear that she was moving around with Lark. Hmm…”

Lark must have noticed that Tiamat had awakened.

So where could Shin Nara be, moving around with that Lark?

Most importantly, what would Shin Nara be doing there?

“Really? So, even you, Ha Leeha, can’t contact her?”

“That’s right. It’s frustrating.”

Leeha was just talking about Middle Earth, but Ram Hwayeon’s expression brightened noticeably.

Suddenly, Ram Hwajung, who had been quietly listening, lifted her head.

“Oh.”

“What’s up, Hwajung?”

She put down her fork and knife.

At that moment, the restaurant doors burst open.

“C-chairman! We haven’t finished cleaning the floor yet—”

“It’s fine.”

As an elderly man in a white suit walked in quickly, several men in black suits followed behind him in a rush.

His demeanor showed that he didn’t care at all about his surroundings.


No one, including the restaurant manager, could stop his strides. Leeha thought Ram Hwajung had an animal-like instinct.

Ram Hwayeon was so shocked that she almost spat out what was in her mouth, but with superhuman restraint, she swallowed it all.

“If you had spit it out, I would have been very disappointed, director.”

He mercilessly pulled a chair from the nearby table and sat at Leeha’s table.

Ram Hwayeon bowed politely to him.

“… Of course, chairman.”

“Ha ha, yes! How have you been, young sniper?”

“… Y-Yes! It’s been a while. Good to see you, chairman Ram Long.”

Leeha also hurriedly greeted him.

The head of the Ram Long Group, a person who controlled the economic landscape of Hong Kong, stood before them.

Judging by the atmosphere, it was clear that this meeting was not planned.

* * *

Leeha had no idea what was happening for the past 15 minutes.

After the aides of Ram Long, dressed in black suits, moved a few times, only the Ram Long family remained in the vast restaurant floor.

‘Everyone must have made reservations, but were they all driven out?’

This wasn’t something that could be achieved through mere power or authority.

The aides of Ram Long were adept not only at negotiation and intimidation but also at offering appropriate compensation, and the mere name of Ram Long made people hastily leave the place.

“So, how’s the business?”

Ram Long only opened his mouth to speak after enough time passed for the surrounding commotion to settle, enjoying his wine.

However, Leeha could not understand his question at all. Business? What kind of business was he referring to?

“Business? What business am― I doing?”

“Hm? Hahaha! Director!”

As soon as Ram Long opened his mouth, Ram Hwayeon promptly spilled out words.

“The qualitative factors of the influence and authority Ha Leeha holds within Middle Earth have become more solid. In terms of quantitative factors, the cash flow from the currently operating city shows a growth rate of over 7% compared to the previous month.”

“Good, good. Isn’t it doing well? For a one-man business, it’s excellent. That’s what a startup is like, isn’t it?”

“Compliments. Strange.”

Ram Hwajung murmured quietly.

It was a statement that only Leeha could hear.

According to his knowledge, Ram Long wasn’t the type to praise others. What meaning did referring to Middle Earth as a ‘one-man business’ and asking about it hold?

‘On top of that, why does Ram Hwayeon know so much about Citadel Grown?’

Even Leeha hadn’t checked how much it had grown compared to the previous month!

Leeha thought that this father-daughter duo was truly terrifying. Ram Long stopped laughing heartily and gazed at Leeha.

Even Leeha, who had experienced many ups and downs as a sniper, felt a chilling sensation from his gaze.

“I have to thank you. While our Director worked tirelessly day and night, thanks to you, our investment returns were quite lucrative. I hear things have been rough on the ‘inside’ lately too.”

“… Pardon?”

Leeha couldn’t understand his sudden words.

Inside? Inside where?

“Ordinarily, I would never have invested. Hahaha, a program that can’t be controlled by the company! That’s just a gamble, a half-baked probability game.”

“… Th-That’s right.”

“But precisely because of that, I invested. In a game made of gambling and probabilities, there was a person who transcended gambling and probabilities. What kind of result would emerge? How much more could our profits increase? It’s quite intriguing.”

Ram Long’s eyes were sparkling.

Leeha noticed that the eyes of the chairman of the Ram Long Group, nearing old age, shone like those of a child. That he could speak so purely about ‘money.’

Was this ambition or not?

Leeha couldn’t decipher the true intent behind Ram Long’s gaze.

Perhaps it was because he still couldn’t understand his words.

“… It seems like you are saying something good… but I apologize. I don’t understand any of it.”

“What? You don’t― Hahaha! Really? You mean you didn’t understand anything I said?”

Ram Long laughed heartily.

By now, Leeha was bewildered.

Ram Long had been talking by himself all this time and suddenly said he didn’t have to understand? What was there to understand?

‘Talking about Middle Earth all of a sudden, and why would I have any connection with this guy― Wait, Middle Earth?’

Leeha thought he might finally understand Ram Long’s words.

What had Ram Long been talking about from the start?

“Oh? Are you talking about, Middle Earth?!”

Ram Long had been discussing Middle Earth.

When Leeha spoke as if he understood, Ram Long suddenly gave a satisfied smile and looked at Ram Hwayeon.

Ram Hwayeon bowed her head deeply, looking uncertain of what to do.

Ram Long looked at her and spoke.

“It must be because this isn’t an act, right? No, even if it were an act, to this extent, one should know to pretend to be duped. Isn’t that right, Hwayeon?”

“… If that’s Father’s wish.”

“Heh, this guy.”

The titles of Director and Chairman were replaced with family terms. The atmosphere grew noticeably softer, but the content remained just as perplexing.

Ram Long once again looked at Leeha.

“Yes. It was about Middle Earth and Goople.”

“Yes. Goople is the company that created Middle Earth. Recently—”

“You met with the Operations team?”

“—Huh? What? Oh?”

For a moment, Leeha’s mind was struck by lightning.

What were the words Ram Long mentioned?

‘A program that the company can’t control,’ ‘investment,’ ‘gambling and odds.’

And the Operations team staff?

How did Ram Long know that?

Even Ram Hwayeon couldn’t hide her shock hearing about meeting the Operations team staff, but how could Ram Long know something Ram Hwayeon didn’t?

As Leeha pieced together Ram Long’s words, he recalled someone else’s words.

『Maintaining the right amount of tension in a stable condition is ideal, isn’t it? From the company’s perspective, they’re the industry leader, but they also have to manage their market share and consider the users’ perspective. Company revenue and, more broadly, the stock price are also important. The influence of extreme shareholders is quite significant.』

As GM’s voice replayed in his mind, Leeha finally realized who the ‘extreme shareholder’ was.

Seeing Leeha’s eyes widen, Ram Long laughed heartily once again.

“Ha ha ha! Indeed, you are a sharp shooter! So, how much have you figured out?”

“You invested, right? And a huge amount—”

The reason Ram Long didn’t discuss this openly and needed to clear the whole floor to talk with his family!

“Correct. I own 4.88% of all issued shares of Goople.”

Since meeting Leeha, Ram Long’s first directive to his son was the acquisition of Goople shares.

Considering the time that had passed since then,

“There’s no other institution, except for the primary shareholders, that holds more than I do.”

Ram Long Group had become a shareholder with enough influence to affect Goople as a whole.

Leeha stood up from his chair without realizing it.

* * *

Seeing Ram Long claim he could influence Goople, Leeha was shocked.

Then he quickly harbored doubt.

Ram Long Group held 4.88% of Goople’s stock.

“Four point eight-eight percent—is that a lot?”

Was that a significant amount?

Seeing Leeha’s bewildered expression, Ram Long looked dumbfounded.

“W-What?”

“Ha Leeha!? If you don’t know, just stay quiet!”

Only when Ram Hwayeon hastily pulled him back to his seat did Ram Long begin to laugh heartily.

“Not knowing, ha ha! There is a limit to not knowing! It’s enormous! Director!”

“Y-Yes, chairman!”

“Explain to him what holding 4.88% of Goople stocks means.”

Speaking generously, Ram Long poured himself a glass of wine.

Ram Hwayeon quickly realized that her father wasn’t entirely in a good mood.

Making one or two mistakes or lacking knowledge about economics could be seen as cute, but this level of ignorance!

“Ha Leeha, do you know the current market capitalization of Goople?”

“Market capitalization is… the total issued shares multiplied by the current stock price, right?”

“Exactly. It’s almost equivalent to the company’s current value. Goople’s current market capitalization in US dollars is…”

Ram Hwayeon quickly pulled out a pen from her pocket.

Leeha couldn’t read the number written on the napkin at a glance.

USD 2,305,554,309,174.

“What in the—? What is this? One, ten, hundred thousand, ten thousand—”

“Approximately 2.305 trillion dollars.”

“2 trillion!? Goople is worth 2 trillion—”

Though Leeha was astonished by the staggering figure, his shock was premature.

“2 trillion ‘US dollars.’ If you consider the exchange rate with Korea, you multiply it by about 1,100.”
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He hadn’t thought about the units yet.

While his economic sense might have been lacking, it didn’t mean he lacked the ability for calculation.

The intellectual capability of a sniper to quickly compute wind direction, wind speed, the size of objects, and distances to targets came into play instantly.

“So, when it’s converted to Korean Won…?”

Leeha extended his hand. Ram Hwayeon handed him a pen.

KRW 2,536,109,740,091,400.

“I can calculate the numbers, but it’s hard to even read the unit.”

Leeha barely managed to read out the amount. His eyes were on the verge of becoming bloodshot.

The market capitalization of Goople, roughly estimated with just a cursory glance at the exchange rate, came out to about 2,536 trillion and 109.74 billion Korean Won.

The valuation of the company, which could extend the concept of time fivefold, was on that level.

It was naturally larger than the combined market cap of the company that sold the most emotionally resonant smartphone in history, the largest search engine in history, and the most innovative internet logistics company in history.

“The current CEO, co-founder of Goople, holds 12% of the shares. Similarly, the other co-founder and head of development who developed the overall system of Middle Earth holds about 13% due to exercising his stock options. So effectively, there are two major shareholders. About 25% is held by individual investors globally. The remaining 50% is divided among numerous institutions including global investment banks. Now, do you understand what it means for a single corporation to hold 4.88%?”

Countless entities held Goople’s shares.

In that context, if the Ram Long Group held 4.88%?

Moreover, a fund typically represents a collective of several companies or wealthy individuals around the world.

Ultimately, it meant that Ram Long alone held approximately 10% of the total 50% institutional investor share.

“Even in simple monetary terms… 4.88% is about 123.7 trillion Korean Won. Seriously, isn’t this insane!?”

No matter how much money Leeha earned in Middle Earth, it was still a story from another world, beyond his reach.

Watching Leeha’s eyes widen, Ram Long lifted his wine glass.

“So, it’s only natural that we have high expectations from our young sniper.”


“What, huh? What do you mean by that…?”

“I never liked the idea when our director first decided to make it a business. Even now, the money he earns from the game Middle Earth is not sufficient to be called a ‘new business’. Above all, how unstable is the ‘game’ created by someone else. Gambling lasts forever, but games do not.”

“So then why… No, why do you have expectations of me—”

“Based on the data from our director and, more importantly, if I correctly understood the young man I’ve spoken to.”

He raised his wine glass.

Leeha clinked his glass with his own, taken aback.

A clear clink resonated across the floor.

“I mean, I believe our young sniper here can turn Middle Earth’s financial statements either black or red. If it turns black, the company’s stock price will surely rise.”

Ram Long drained his wine glass.

Leeha had to take a moment to process what he said.

He must have heard about Leeha from Ram Hwayeon herself.

He would have explained the whole flow of the game Middle Earth.

He must have known how sensational the game was. Nevertheless, he was not convinced about investing.

The turning point for him to consider investing was ultimately!

“Huh, just from talking to me? What did I even say?”

Leeha couldn’t remember much beyond the fact that he drank wine born in his birth year and it tasted good.

He did remember that Ram Long had tried to test him with the roulette, but he couldn’t recall their conversation at that time.

“The game where you bounce the ball and it lands on black or red numbers, that was it?”

Black and red. Financial gains were recorded in black and losses, or deficits, in red.

It implied that he could predict where the roulette ball would land as well as read the flow of a company, but Leeha hadn’t grasped that much.


“Chairman, speaking of that operations team staff member…”

As Leeha was sorting out his thoughts, Ram Hwayeon asked what she had been curious about.

Currently, no user other than those present at the time knew that Leeha had met the GM.

“Ah, right. News does reach you better when you’re a shareholder. They say the internal situation is currently in chaos. So, I had a chat with the operations team. Suggesting some risk management, very subtly.”

“Subtly… I see.”

Since Ram Hwayeon knew best how her father ‘subtly’ conveyed his messages, she didn’t press further.

Ram Long read the atmosphere around Leeha, knowing that he had finally sorted out his intentions.

“Even without pointing it out specifically, the team manager mentioned the young sniper’s name. It was easy to recognize since the nickname and the name were the same.”

“I see.”

“I won’t extend this longer since you must have already heard. Frankly, my situation isn’t bad. I could liquidate my shares right now and make a substantial profit. The stock price has soared significantly since my investment. Even more than the profits from the director’s ‘new business.’ But… I don’t want to stop there. Do you understand?”

Ram Long filled his glass once more.

He personally filled Leeha’s glass with wine from the bottle.

Leeha received the wine with both hands, cautiously accepting the drink.

What Ram Rong expected was for Leeha to return Middle Earth to a “normal flow.” In other words, he was essentially telling Leeha to ensure the game remains popular and retains its users.

The continuous rise in Goople’s stock, the company behind Middle Earth, would only strengthen Ram Rong’s influence.

Seeing Ram Rong, a chairman who displayed calculated measures for extreme profit, Leeha once again felt frightened by him.

That short conversation left Leeha bewildered—making such a decision after only exchanging a few words?

‘No, perhaps because I saved Ram Hwajung…when I think about it…’

He had managed to save Ram Hwajung from well-armed kidnappers, even though he himself had not fully recovered from his injuries.

This meant that Ram Rong had judged Leeha’s decisiveness, actions, and knowledge based on solid grounds.


At that moment, Ram Rong must have made his decision.

He filled Leeha’s glass with wine and clinked their glasses.

“Give it a shot. To your heart’s content.”

“Yes. I was planning to do so even if you hadn’t mentioned it.”

Leeha nodded as he listened to Ram Rong.

It was different from Ram Rong benefiting; Leeha also stood to gain much from Middle Earth.

Not for him, but for himself.

Leeha was determined to do it right.

Just as he was bolstering his resolve with a sip of wine, Ram Rong’s final words suddenly shattered his composure.

“That’s right. If you want Hwayeon, that is.”

“Dad────!”

Ram Hwayeon stood up and shouted.

Wine dribbled from Leeha’s nose.

“Ha ha ha! Hwayeon, it’s your turn next!”

Ram Rong laughed madly as he stood.

He quickly left the restaurant with his aides.

As he arrived at the hotel lobby and boarded his private vehicle, Ja Cheong asked,

“Chairman, are you really okay with this? We already achieved our initial profit target. Relying solely on Ha Leeha—”

“Ha ha, isn’t he the one Hwayeon chose? We must see what happens.”

Watch.

Once Ram Rong had made a decision, no aide had the right to open their mouths.

Ja Cheong quietly bowed his head.

Ram Rong slightly opened the window and gazed at the night sky of Hong Kong.

“If he can’t even achieve this, he doesn’t deserve the opportunity.”

The vehicle with the plate number 8888 smoothly accelerated.

Their path was clear.

* * *

“Err, cough, um, forget what Dad— the Chairman, my father— said! Uh, just, uh—”

Ram Hwayeon stuttered, acting and speaking incoherently. Leeha could only watch her with a shocked expression.

“Son-in-law. Test.”

“Hwajung! Can you keep quiet?”

Ram Hwajung managed to condense their father’s words into two succinct phrases.

Though Ram Hwayeon hastily shut her sister’s mouth, Leeha had already understood enough.

‘…Me? Why? Ram Rong? Ram Hwayeon?’

Leeha knew that Ram Hwayeon didn’t feel entirely indifferent towards him. Even someone as clueless as Leeha could see a certain level of affection.

But, could it not be just that?

Was it not simply a warm affection formed through business interactions, but rather, a genuine romantic interest significant enough for the word “marriage” to be uttered by her father?

As Leeha stayed silent, Ram Hwayeon, who had been flustered, also became quiet.

She observed Leeha’s expression and asked,

“Why, why! What’s wrong! Why! Do you hate it? Does it feel unpleasant?”

Seeing her aggressive questioning, Leeha finally collected his thoughts.

What exactly was she saying?

She hadn’t outright called Ram Rong’s words a “lie.” She did not deny her father’s assessment, which accurately grasped her emotional state towards Leeha.

Leeha finally understood.

“It’s…strange. It is strange, but—well, I don’t dislike it—no, how could I dislike it? Why would I be upset?”

Leeha continued to speak.

As Leeha spoke, he organized his thoughts and feelings.

“What? Then…”

Ram Hwayeon’s eyes were teary.

How should she react? It was clear that her flustered demeanor was not what she had wanted to show.

‘I am…’

Leeha thought as he looked at her.

Only then did he understand all the countless actions Ram Hwayeon had shown so far, and he felt a wave of guilt.

What about himself?

Despite his tangled memories and thoughts, one thing was certain.

“I also… l-like you.”

Leeha said.

Though his voice was as tiny as an ant’s whisper, Ram Hwayeon certainly heard it. She looked at him with wide, astonished eyes.

“What… did you say just now?”

She asked again.

She hoped what she heard wasn’t false. That she hadn’t misheard.

Leeha took a deep breath and composed himself.

He was a sniper. There should be no tremor when pulling the trigger toward the target.

Ensuring that no shot veered off the target.

That was the duty of a sniper.

Leeha looked at Ram Hwayeon. His eyes were shining.

“I said, I like you too, Ram Hwayeon.”

Leeha’s forefinger twitched ever so slightly. His words, faster than 830 meters per second, pierced Ram Hwayeon’s heart.

The difference from his usual sniping was that the target ran toward him after being hit by the bullet.

“Ha Leeha―!”

Leeha gently embraced Ram Hwayeon who had run into his arms.

They stared into each other’s faces. When Leeha hesitated, Ram Hwayeon was the one who initiated it.

The moment their lips met.

It was the moment that the emotions, hovering for a long time, finally connected.

Ram Hwajung quietly watched the two of them.

Her feelings toward Leeha were closer to admiration or affection rather than love.

“I also…”

She hugged both Ram Hwayeon and Leeha who were kissing.

She quietly spoke, looking at the woman and man she liked the most.

“Today. Day 1.”

* * *

Leeha could not remember how Ram Peng’s wedding went, nor what the German doctor, whom he hadn’t seen in a long time, said about his lower body.

From the moment he became an official(?) couple with Ram Hwayeon after dinner with Ram Rong, his memories of the entire time in Hong Kong seemed to blur.

Upon completing the schedule and returning home, it was Ram Hwajung’s “soon-to-be-hyung-in-law” gift of two suitcases and the fifteen sets of clothes Ram Hwayeon handed him to wear for Korean occasions that he vaguely recalled.

During that long span, Leeha mostly either dazed off or fiddled with his lips.

“Hyung?”

Even now, when he had safely returned home and logged into Middle Earth.

When Kijung saw Leeha fiddling with his lips, he asked. Leeha suddenly snapped to attention and looked at Kijung.

“Oh! Oh, yeah, Kijung.”

“What’s up with you? Something happened? Didn’t you say you were going to Hong Kong?”

“Oh, yeah. I did. I did.”

“…What is this? Why are you so out of it? Were you even listening to what I was saying?”

“Oh! Yeah, yeah, I was. I was.”

His responses were all he could manage.

Realizing that normal conversation wasn’t working, Kijung sighed.

They had met today just to catch up a bit anyway.

“Sheesh, whatever. I’m still working things out with Raphaela. It’ll take a while longer. Biyemi seems to know something about Lark and Shin Nara, but he said he’ll observe a bit more and let us know? What does that even mean? Everyone’s been acting so secretive lately.”

“…Shin Nara? What’s she up to? Are the two of them still together?”

Biyemi and Petyr hadn’t made any immediate judgments about what they had seen.

Fortunately. When Leeha heard about Shin Nara, he felt a twinge in his chest.
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“Hey? Suddenly you seem more lively. Anyway, I don’t know right now. I’ll tell you as soon as I find out. Even Bobae is frustrated because she doesn’t know. So, for the time being, just do what you need to do, hyung. I’ll go out for a bit to do some campaigning―”

As Kijung was about to get up, Leeha grabbed him.

Seeing Leeha suddenly turn serious, Kijung swallowed hard.

“Kijung.”

“―Uh, yes? What is it, hyung?”

Leeha stared intensely at Kijung with sharp eyes and asked,

“You’re dating Bobae, right? How’s that going?”

“…… Huh? What are you talking about all of a sudden?”

When Kijung tilted his head in confusion, Leeha started mouthing words silently.

―Hey. I kissed Ram Hwayeon. Actually, I should call her my girlfriend now, rather than Ram Hwayeon, right?

“Wha──────────t?! What?!”

Kijung’s shock was endless.

Everyone inside the tavern turned their gaze towards Kijung as he kept exclaiming and backing away.

“What, what! So, that―so! I knew it! I had a feeling that would―”

―Shh! Keep it down, man! It’s a secret! Shh!

Leeha hushed him with a whisper.

Kijung, who was pointing at Leeha in surprise, barely regained his composure and sat back down opposite Leeha.

He was so agitated that he even dropped his shield.

For a tanker, especially one with a shield made from “Toon’s Bones”, this was a shocking event for Kijung.

“What happened, hyung?! Really? A kiss―well, it could’ve been just an impulsive thing! Are you sure? Was there clear, mutual intent from both of you? You weren’t drunk or anything?”


It was natural for Kijung to wonder if it was an accidental mistake due to alcohol.

How long had Leeha and Ram Hwayeon known each other?

How many times had they actually met, and if you count the time they spent together in Middle Earth, how much time had passed?

It’s no wonder it felt surprising and unbelievable that their relationship had progressed to this point now.

Understanding Kijung’s shock, Leeha nodded, feeling a bit guilty for his own obliviousness.

“Yeah. It was definite, and we weren’t drunk. Hmm… She’s not the type to get drunk off just a glass or two of wine, right?”

“That’s… true. Yeah, yeah. Ram―ahem! She’s not like that at all.”

Kijung quickly corrected himself, nearly saying “Ram Hwayeon isn’t that kind of woman”.

He truly was Leeha’s perceptive cousin.

Kijung filled his cup with water and took a big gulp, before looking at Leeha again.

“So? So, what now, hyung?”

With the mischievous glint of a child wanting to play a prank, Kijung’s eyes sparkled. Leeha sighed as he looked at him.

“Well… that’s what I wanted to ask. What should I do now? What should I do next?”

“What? How should I know? You have to figure that out, hyung! Have you tried whispering to her? Or maybe meet up with her! Isn’t she online now?”

Leeha nodded.

He had already opened and closed the friend window multiple times.

Leeha had seen that Ram Hwayeon was logged in, and he believed Ram Hwayeon must have seen him logged in too.

Yet, neither of them had sent a whisper first.

Kijung shook his head as he looked at Leeha.

“Just do it. Whisper to her, like ‘Hwayeon~ Good morning!’ or something―”


“Hey―How could I do something like that!”

When Kijung mimicked Leeha’s voice playfully, Leeha jumped in his chair.

Kijung sneered and continued to chuckle.

“Ha ha ha, what’s the big deal? You’ve already done, you know, more than that.”

“Ahem! Anyway… well. Just know that, for now.”

“Got it, hyung. Good thing I hinted to Aunt last year, in advance.”

“What?”

“That there might be a Hong Kong daughter-in-law―”

“Shh, shh! What the―if someone hears―!”

“―Why? Now that you’re officially lovers, you can say stuff like that.”

When Kijung nonchalantly spoke with a serious expression, Leeha was left speechless.

The best he could do was, after all, counterattack.

“So then, what about you? Are you going to marry Bobae?”

“I met Bobae’s mother recently. I’m still a student, so it was just a greeting.”

The best tank in Middle Earth knew how to use ‘tanking angles’ even in conversations.

When Leeha stood there with his mouth agape, unable to say anything, Kijung began to gather his items and stood up.

Just then, Raphaela entered the tavern.

“Master Kay! Hurry up! Everyone’s gathered already, what are you doing here?”

“Got it! Hyung, I’m off then!”

“Hey— you— with that— Raphaela—”


Leeha’s words were tangled and came out in fragments, but Kijung shrugged and landed a parting shot at his cousin.

“Not all conversations with women are romantic. It’s just business, business. Thinking like that narrows your world. See you later, hyung!”

Kijung disappeared with the wind.

Leeha remained dazed, sitting alone in the tavern.

‘Wasn’t he a complete novice just a while ago…?’

Does love change a person? However, Leeha couldn’t think about it any longer. He had more pressing matters at hand.

Of all the things Kijung said, only one stuck in his mind.

What should he say to Ram Hwayeon? After agonizing over this for two hours at the tavern, Leeha finally got up.

‘Does it even matter what I say? Anyway, she’s a female friend!’

There were more tasks to be done in Middle Earth.

Leeha whispered to two people at the same time.

—Hwayeon-ah.

He abruptly called his girlfriend by her name, with the murmured voice of the world’s most bashful guy.

—Prea? Haven’t heard from you lately… What have you been up to?

The other person was a white-eyed Spiritualist.

Since his ‘short-term goal’ was already set, the person he needed to find was clear.

And the clarity in his voice addressing this concise target was remarkably different from the voice that had just called out to Ram Hwayeon.

—Oh my, Ha Leeha~? Long time no see? I heard you were busy lately.

—I’ve been busy finding out about the ‘new spirit.’

—A new… spirit? Oh, what a joke! What kind of spirit could it be for you to say that? Do you think there’s a spirit I don’t know of?

Ram Hwayeon didn’t reply. Only Prea’s banter came back.

Given that she had successfully conquered the Dark Spirit, it was possible she had obtained another dark-attribute spirit.

But Ha Leeha believed that, at least for this spirit, she wouldn’t know.

—Oh, really? If you know everything about spirits, you must know about the 《Spirit of Wrath》 too! I was thinking of going since I don’t know much either… but if you’re not interested—

—Where! Where is it!?

It took less than a second for Prea’s voice to change. Grinning broadly, Leeha took out a crystal ball.

To extract information?

He needed to make the opponent entirely submissive. Leeha knew exactly what would achieve this.

—Come to the far western city of Minis. Within 5 minutes.

—Far west? Either a castle or a city name at least—

—Five minutes.

It was a ‘wild goose chase.’

Leeha activated the crystal ball right away.

Without revealing his location, Prea would need to work her wits and intuition to reach this place.

‘Alright, let’s organize stats in the meantime. Character screen!’

Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human

Occupation: White Reaper / Level: 264 (15.3%)

Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 180

HP: 11,820 (8,274)

MP: 6,570

Stats:

Strength 912 (+827)

Agility 4,796 (+1,666)

Intelligence 690 (+474)

Stamina 464 (+338)

Spirit 530 (+206)

Remaining Stat Points: 197

* * *

“Hmm, come to think of it, after I achieved the R- rank accomplishment and completed the quests in Saur Land, I never allocated my points.”

Since the last intense battle with Chiyou, Leeha had not encountered any combat worthy of mention. Despite expending so many points at that time, he had since accumulated nearly 200 stat points.

‘While others fight tooth and nail for just 5 points, I somehow keep accumulating them… R- rank is indeed different.’

With this in mind, Leeha began to carefully examine his stats.

What was the most urgent need considering future battles?

‘To increase MP, spirit points are important, but unless I’m fully capable of firing White Reaper, having 100,000 MP won’t even make a difference. In the end, do I have to raise agility?’

To exert the same power as the previous White Reaper, Shimo, Leeha needed to use Snow Storm to create a snowfall, then shoot White Reaper into it, creating an endless laser inferno.

But what about Leeha’s White Reaper?

Every time a laser split upon hitting a single snowflake, Leeha’s mana consumption would increase by 1,000.

With only 6,000 MP, he could barely create four laser splits.

‘What an insanely powerful skill that I can only fire once each time!’

It was an unavoidable situation.

The restriction on White Reaper could only be lifted once the rifle fully acknowledged him, which meant achieving a 100% charge rate with the rifle, Black Bass.

How could he reach a 100% charge rate?

‘Should I kill off all the Ezwene users?’

If he wore a mask and killed with one shot, one kill, they wouldn’t even know who the attacker was.

Of course, in Middle Earth, just hiding one’s face wouldn’t resolve everything. Middle Earth had a system in place.

‘The chaotic value will skyrocket… well, if it can fill up to 25%, I’d be willing to do it. Killing 100 to 200 people—what’s there to be afraid of?’

Leeha knew better than anyone that Middle Earth wouldn’t make things so easy. Even if he killed priests and sisters over level 200, the charge rate of Black Bass would barely increase by two decimal points.

‘Wouldn’t it only fill about 0.01%? Plus, if this crazy thing doesn’t recognize repeat users—’

To fill the 25% charge rate, he would have to kill at least 2,500 users who were priests or had similar classes above level 200.

Ezwen’s kingdom would likely put a bounty on Leeha’s head or impose life imprisonment in the papal underground prison, making his situation truly dire.

‘And I’d lose all my rapport with the pope… what a mess.’

Leeha fiddled with Black Bass, half worried and half restless. As he clicked the bolt, Black Bass spoke to him.

― Heh heh… if it’s that Holy Knight you met earlier, I could generously count 3% for that. ―

“What?”

― A cardinal-level divine power, the reputation of a nameless paladin, and the prestige of a Holy Knight. He was a rare human. Usually, a cardinal wouldn’t even make up 0.1%, but he’s different. ―

Leeha, boiling with anger but also shuddering at the remark about a typical cardinal being worth 0.1%, turned his focus back to the rifle.

“Are you kidding me, black? That guy’s my cousin!”

― Heh heh… contractor, I merely propose. I show you the quickest and easiest path. ―

When Leeha raised his voice in anger, Black Bass let out a ‘chuunibyou’ style laugh.

Leeha was more dumbfounded than ever.

‘Seriously insane. Elizabeth had a reason for saying she couldn’t name this thing after herself.’

However, one thing was clear.

Black Bass wasn’t lying. At the very least, it served as a guide for Leeha.

‘It was the same in Saur Land.’

If he had killed Saur Land’s king, he could have filled 100%.

But was that ever a viable option? This proposal was no different. If he killed Kijung and slaughtered all the cardinals?

Turning Ezwen’s kingdom into a near-anarchy might fill 15%. Killing the pope could result in 25%.

‘It’s insane. Black’s proposal is the quickest and easiest, but…’
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The simultaneous temptation to fall into hell.

An irreversible situation.

In comparison to the righteous path, which you must navigate through thorny paths and detours, it was an exceptionally easy shortcut and a swift path.

And it was a heretical way, a way to death.

Leeha shook his head quickly to clear his thoughts.

‘No, I shouldn’t listen to this guy.’

The Black Bass’s temptation, which served only himself, would be of no benefit.

However, it wasn’t completely devoid of hints.

Although he couldn’t kill all the cardinals of Ezwin, one thing the Black Bass said was true.

– “Kijung, are you busy with Raphaela-nim right now?”

– “No, I’m just chatting with some priest users. Why, hyung?”

Kijung’s status as someone special even in Ezwin mattered. Although he couldn’t kill Kijung, couldn’t Kijung find a way?

– “It’s nothing, just—”

“I found it, Shil-Lyron! Push me quickly!”

Just as Leeha was about to speak, someone started running at a tremendous speed.

A wood elf pushing aside all the Minis users and even the city guards!

“Ha Leehaaaa—! It hasn’t been 5 minutes yet!”

The white-eyed Spiritualist, known in the community for her ‘mysterious charm’ and ‘solo play’, was also helpless in front of Leeha.

Leeha barely held back a laugh that threatened to escape.

– “Hyung, what is it? What are you trying to say?”


– “Oh, never mind. I’ll contact you later.”

Leeha ended his whisper with Kijung and waved his hand towards Prea.

“It’s been a while.”

“You must understand there’s a reason I haven’t contacted you lately.”

“Not at all.”

When Leeha shook his head with a bitter smile, Prea flashed a lively smile.

Leeha knew well that she was trying her best to impress him.

“Oh my, oh my. That can’t be true~ You know well what kind of ‘work’ I do.”

“Exactly. I’m saying that you haven’t said a word about that ‘work’ lately. I thought you had forgotten.”

“No, how could I? Did I come all this way without anything to talk about?”

Prea stuttered in a panic.

Anyway, the fact that Prea came here was akin to crossing a significant hurdle.

From now on, it was time to push forward.

– “Regarding the news from the Demon King’s army… it means there’s definitely something I don’t know, right? If you make up a clumsy lie… it would be goodbye forever. Just know that I am not ignorant of Chiyou’s current situation.”

– “Of course. How can you not trust me after I’ve told you several times? Moments like this make me genuinely sad.”

Prea replied with a whisper and drooped her eyes with her fingers.

Her gesture indicated just how desperately she longed for the ‘spirit.’

“But still, I can’t trust you. Is it because of your eyes?”

Her unique appearance, devoid of pupils, seemed to lower her trustworthiness. Ultimately, he would have to hear her out before making a judgment.

“… Well, let’s hear it. Let’s go.”


“Wait― Where are we going? At least tell me that!”

“I’m not dumb enough to reveal the destination just yet. Follow quietly~”

Leeha strode forward like a man heading out for a casual stroll.

Prea realized once again that extracting any information from Leeha was nearly impossible, and she had no choice but to cling closely to his side.

As they passed through the city of Minis and reached the pioneer base, and finally arrived at Tapadokia, which was once a village of Dark Elves, Leeha listened to many stories from Prea.

Prea indeed had news that would satisfy Leeha.

“… Really?”

“Why would I lie? Honestly, this is why I decided to meet you, Ha Leeha. It’s hard to judge which side to choose to give you the information you want.”

Prea pouted her lips and looked at Leeha.

Though she tried her best to bring out her ace charm, Leeha didn’t even glance at her face.

‘Unbelievable… Chiyou. Could it be― could it be―’

The news Prea brought was about Chiyou’s recent activities.

‘To break away from Bluebeard with 《Arcane Sniper》! And taking Igor and Pyro with her….’

Was such a thing even possible?

While the exact details were unknown, Leeha had to spread this information immediately to verify Prea’s words.

To everyone who knew about Chiyou and all the users Leeha knew.

* * *

Igor held up his greatsword. The target of his saw-like blade was Chiyou.

“Kahahaha! You laugh while saying that? Tearing you apart wouldn’t even be enough satisfaction!”

“Calm down a bit, Igor. You’ll look weak.”


“What, what!? You―”

Igor was ready to charge at once.

Despite the hierarchy among vampires, russia’s mad bear would have leapt forward to attack Chiyou.

Had it not been for Pyro, who stood in his way, and Kyle, who raised his rifle.

“Nothing good will come from acting now, Igor.”

“Shut up, you arsonist. Do you think I’m in the same situation as you?”

“I know we’re different. It’s probably because of the Czar… but for now, calming down will benefit us both.”

Wings had sprouted from Pyro’s body.

They were markedly different from that of other vampires.

Pyro, engulfed in black flames, had already entered the state of the 〈Flame Demon〉.

“Us? Us? You’re grouping me with―”

“I’m grouping us together because we’ve been completely forgotten by Le.”

Pyro calmed Igor for precisely this reason.

They understood that they were considered dead in the hands of Kibrid.

How would Bluebeard and Kibrid perceive ‘Igor’ and ‘Pyro’ as users in the future?

At the very least, all their relationships within the Demon King’s army would have been reset.

Even if they appeared right before Bluebeard now, Le would treat them as merely ‘vampires with names identical to those he knew.’

“You probably anticipated this, Chiyou.”

“Well, to some extent?”

Chiyou shrugged her shoulders in response to Pyro’s question.

It was naturally one of her predictions. Bluebeard would never leave a traitor unscathed.

Chiyou’s actions in order to escape from there, right after obtaining the 《Arcane Sniper》, were proof that she knew that fact.

‘An unexpected issue might be that the corpses of these guys have turned into chimeras because of Ghibrid… but I should perhaps keep that a secret.’

Nonetheless, she answered “I knew it to some extent” for this reason.

Hearing this, Igor burst out again, but Pyro remained calm, holding onto his sanity while the flames within him burned even stronger.

“What should we do from now on? Clearly, you—”

“Exactly. That’s what I’m here to talk about. Impatient as always… As you know, I have Arcane Sniper, our adorable Kyle. And the Ha Leeha you all want to kill so badly—”

“Ha Leeha!? Did you capture him?”

“No, no, listen to the end. There’s also Ha Leeha’s ‘master’. That’s Kyle’s mother, Elizabeth. You know her, right?”

Pyro and Igor recalled the female NPC who had appeared alongside Chiyou.

“Hehe… So that was Ha Leeha’s master. He’s something else.”

“Conversely, it means he grew up without a master.”

As Pyro assessed the situation coolly, Igor’s rage only intensified.

The fact that his options were limited was highly frustrating for him.

“Damn it! So, what are you planning to do, Chiyou? If you want to end your Vampire authority, we can do it right now!”

Another thing revealed by the deaths of Igor and Pyro was that vampires could relinquish their powers.

Upon logging in, they had seen the notice.

The time-limited option did not wait long for them.

They had to decide within a mere week what could be a crucial turning point in their Middle Earth gameplay, and anxiously, they had finally met to come see Chiyou.

Barely a day was left at that point.

Chiyou did not flinch at Igor’s threat. She was, in fact, laughing.

“Having already made a name for yourself on the Demon King’s side… and being expelled from there… and you want to finish off the vampire? I wonder if you’ll have a place to return to?”

“I will. If not, I’ll make one. If I take your burnt corpse and relinquish the vampire powers here, they’ll believe me.”

Pyro’s fury matched Igor’s.

Though Igor had hoped for it quietly, they were still far from being able to manage Chiyou through a conversation.

“With Arcane Sniper and his parents before us? Do you think your flames or bullets are faster…? You, more than anyone, should know that best, Pyro.”

Chiyou not only threatened with her skills but also invoked someone Pyro directly resented.

The fastest weapon in Middle Earth: bullets. Any user who had been struck by Ha Leeha’s bullet would be on edge.

So was Pyro.

His anger directed at Chiyou found its “correct target” again.

If Pyro stayed put, it would be hard for Igor to move. As Pyro said, users who had sided with the Demon King’s army must present impressive trophies to avoid relentless pursuit from the Shin Nara Alliance.

Chiyou did not miss the moment they hesitated.

“Leave the vampire powers be. As you know, I didn’t impose any restrictions on you despite being able to use them specially. Moving around during the day just incurs a minor penalty; it wasn’t completely impossible, right?”

“What could that achieve? And what difference would it make if this arsonist and I joined you? Do you think we can become a third power, like Bluebeard, instead of just another group of users?”

Igor snarled.

Chiyou nodded immediately upon hearing him.

“Otherwise, why would I be meeting you? At the very least, I promise one thing: as long as I am the Vampire Queen… you’ll have a position beyond that of a founding member. If… everything goes according to my plan.”

“Do you have a plan?”

The flames of the Flame Mage had weakened.

Chiyou responded without a moment’s hesitation.

“The leaders of both Metal and Chromatic have awakened, haven’t they? We can make the dragons of both sides kneel before us. How about that—wouldn’t that be enough to establish a country?”

“Does 《Arcane Bullet》 make it possible to do that?”

“We will find out from now on, won’t we?”

Chiyou smiled brightly.

Igor could not help but fall for the witch’s scheme.

He cursed in Russian as he kicked stones at his feet, but as Chiyou started to move, he followed her.

Igor and Pyro had completely become Chiyou’s allies.

The plan she conceived was just beginning.
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Chapter 924

“So, you just stood there and watched?”

“Oh my goodness! What else was I supposed to do? Ha Leeha-ssi, you know how hard it is to get this kind of information in the first place!”

Prea scoffed as she spoke.

Leeha had grumbled out of frustration, but thanks to the information Prea had brought, he could draw a rough map in his mind of what would happen next.

“Where did they go?”

“I don’t know that either. Didn’t I tell you before? It’s difficult to decide ‘which side to attach to’.”

“This is troubling.”

Chiyou left with Pyro and Igor.

Even Leeha, who had hoped to use Prea as a spy to extract information from them, faced a quandary.

If Bluebeard and Chiyou were setting up an intense rivalry, making it seem like they would kill each other, it would be hard to find a user trusted by both sides, Leeha thought.

So a question arose.

‘Can one not decide on that?’

How did Prea obtain such high-level information while she was still ‘pondering’?

Leeha turned his head and looked at Prea.

“Why? What else do you want to know?”

“How did you know that?”

“Know what?”

“That Chiyou fought with Bluebeard. And that Pyro and Igor sided with Chiyou at that moment. If you were there at the scene, wouldn’t you have had to choose a side? Just like how Faust remained with the Demon King’s army. But you said you were still ‘pondering’ which side to take. How is that possible?”

“What’s so difficult about that? Pretend to side with Bluebeard, and after sharing concerns with Ha Leeha, approach Chiyou and—”


“They would never accept you.”

“—W-What?”

“Chiyou isn’t that kind of person. They would never accept you.”

It would be different if you were someone who had newly joined the Demon King’s army. Or if you were recruited through someone like Sasuke from the Shinobi Gumi.

But Prea was not one of them.

Leeha had already heard from Prea herself that Chiyou had been suspicious of her. Being with Chiyou before Toon had fully awakened was almost like being a ‘founding contributor’ to the Demon King’s army.

Chiyou would not give time for someone who had already built a certain level of familiarity with Bluebeard to ponder their choice.

At that moment, anyone who did not immediately choose a side would be considered an enemy.

‘Just like how Faust remained. Tsk, as a necromancer, that was an inevitable choice. Pyrot-Cocri can control all undead. But to refuse Chiyou— no, hold on. Refuse?’

Another thought hit Leeha at that moment.

Faust did not go with Chiyou?

He was a necromancer. The Lizardia race. But he was also a vampire.

‘Chiyou has absolute authority over vampires! As long as Chiyou has that— Faust can’t escape!’

As a vampire belonging to the Demon King’s army, if Bluebeard and Chiyou imposed a specific restriction or command on Faust simultaneously, how would he react?

Would it cancel each other out?

“What about Faust?”

“What? Didn’t I tell you?”

“Is it certain that Bluebeard didn’t kill Faust?”

“As far as I know, yes.”

Prea’s answer prompted Leeha to think.


‘Bluebeard could transfer the vampire’s aura to other users, not just through Chiyou’s bites. He had also transferred the vampire’s blood. That’s how Igor and Faust became vampires.’

Bluebeard couldn’t be unaware of Faust’s condition. If Bluebeard hadn’t killed Faust, then?

‘Is there a way to control them? Maybe there’s a way to control the vampires created by his power instead of Chiyou’s bites… Or can he eliminate the vampire’s power altogether?’

If the vampire’s authority were nullified, might Faust have returned to his first job class, necromancer, from his second job class, ‘Death Bringer’?

At least at this point, only one person would know for sure: Faust himself.

After listening to Prea’s answers about Faust, Leeha made his decision.

Such information could never be obtained unless one was ‘on the scene.’

How did she gather such information?

“Prea, let me ask you again. How did you know this?”

“I don’t know what other answer I should give apart from what I’ve already told you.”

Leeha continuously questioned her, but Prea wasn’t easily forthcoming. Leeha sighed.

If she acted like this, he only had one option left.

Standstill.

“Is this the place? Hmm, I don’t feel much here. I’ve been to the area around the pioneer base before, but… I’ve never been this far. Anyway, there’s no spirit energy here—”

Leeha stopped walking, prompting Prea to glance around. However, her expression wasn’t entirely cheerful.

Turning around, Leeha looked back at Prea.

The originally boisterous white-eyed Spiritualist now fell silent.

Her whites moved left and right for a moment before she started feigning innocence.

“Oh my~ Why did you bring me to such a secluded place? I didn’t realize Ha Leeha could be so audacious.”

“Stop joking and answer me. How did you get that information?”


Leeha’s voice lowered, causing Prea, who had been about to brush it off with a joke, to become serious.

“You seem confident that I wasn’t there, which, of course, is a secret.”

“I’m not a Spiritualist, so I wouldn’t know. I might’ve believed it if it were just using spirits. But… not now.”

In the past, perhaps he could have. But now?

He had received a direct warning from GM about. Chiyou.

At the very least, Leeha couldn’t overlook anything related to Chiyou lightly.

Not addressing everything clearly might come back to bite him later.

Would a sniper behave like that?

‘How many times have I been ambushed like this? If this were actual combat, if this were a battlefield.’

He had lost in the sniper duel with Chiyou.

Chiyou’s bullet would have already split his head open.

He had no intention of admitting defeat. But denying it would be an error of objectivity.

Subjective judgment, strategies and tactics swayed by emotions, lead to only one result.

‘Continued failure.’

That wasn’t an option.

To prevent that, Leeha had to ensure everything.

As Leeha steadied his breath with a determined expression, Prea’s fingers twitched. Leeha took a deep breath slowly.

His gaze was focused on the Spiritualist’s white eyes.

“Prea.”

Leeha straightened his shoulders and looked at Prea.

For dealing with Chiyou in the future, and what was needed now. No matter how he thought about it, only one thing was necessary in the current situation.

Sincerity.

Leeha locked eyes with Prea and spoke clearly.

“I plan to eradicate Chiyou from Middle Earth. Not by killing her, but by destroying all the foundations she has built.”

The thoughts and plans Leeha had since losing the 《Arcane Sniper》.

While not concrete, on the matter of his resolve, Leeha was voicing this for the first time.

And not to Kijung, not to Ram Hwayeon, not to his comrades in the Three Musketeers, but to Prea.

It was, so to speak, another form of awakening different in essence from secondary job changes, stat-ups, and skill upgrades in the game.

Not simply the resolve to kill Chiyou, capture the Demon King’s Fragment, or become the Arcane Sniper, but an awakening.

As a player receiving vast attention both within the game and from external figures like GM and Ram Long, as someone who had received a lot from Middle Earth.

Leeha felt a sense of responsibility.

And at this moment, he wanted to make Prea completely his ally.

* * *

“You are a top-ranking player. The most famous and strongest in the Spiritualist job class. But isn’t it boring to grow strong alone?”

“I’m just casually enjoying the game—”

“You can’t maintain the rank of Middle Earth’s top player with a light heart. Prea, you need to set a direction if you want to immerse yourself fully. If you truly play Middle Earth just for fun, even that will have a good impact. It’ll be more enjoyable.”

Though presently acting as Leeha’s confidante, Leeha didn’t know Prea’s true feelings.

Prea’s position was one where she could betray him and leave at any moment. If he could solidify that, it would be a powerful card for Leeha.

Leeha focused even more on Prea.

For a moment, the Spiritualist’s white eyes were at a loss.

She was a player who had insisted on solo play. Conversing and playing with spirits, handling NPCs; hence, even when encountering other players, she treated them similarly.

Arrogantly and recklessly.

‘That’s what people mean when they say she lacks social skills. She must have been enjoying Middle Earth as a single-player game.’

Thus, she wouldn’t be used to such an approach.

Judging by her reaction, Leeha could tell.

Unknowingly, Prea took a step back and spoke.

“Even so… do you really think that’s possible? Chiyou isn’t an NPC. It’d be impossible to erase her from this game.”

Leeha approached her.

“No. We can do it. Have you forgotten about the spirits?”

It can be done.

It wasn’t just words, Prea had experienced it several times.

She was the first to discover the spirit of darkness. She even made a pact with the terror spirit.

And now?

Prea bit her lips and asked.

“… Are you sure there is a Spirit of Wrath?”

She was talking about the dark attribute spirit, which even the Spirit Master Prea didn’t fully understand.

“With a very high probability. I am certain.”

Having already adapted to Middle Earth’s system, Leeha nodded with confidence.

Prea and Leeha looked into each other’s eyes in silence for a long time.

She exhaled lightly, but it wasn’t a sigh of resignation. Rather, it was close to a sigh of relief from someone who had returned from a long adventure.

“Guys, want to come out?”

Prea snapped her fingers.

In an instant, Leeha’s whole body felt a prickle as the spirits’ energies abruptly surged around them.

“This is―”

“Kishishit, it’s a human!”

“It’s a familiar scent!”

“It’s Ha Leeha, right?”

Thanks to the skill 〈Spirit Detection〉, Leeha could also clearly tell.

But only to the extent of knowing. Even with Leeha’s 〈Distorted Vision〉, the spirits could not be detected properly.

Strictly speaking, it wasn’t that they were invisible, but they seemed to blend into the surrounding darkness itself.

“Creatures like Bluebeard always reek of dark magic. The spirits of darkness won’t fall for it. Users who can’t properly sense spirits won’t even have a clue. On the contrary―”

Snap―!

Prea snapped her fingers again.

Through the rays of light filtering through the leaves, Leeha could feel something but still couldn’t see anything.

“They can be known through Will-o’-the-Wisp.”

If you were looking at the light, you were seeing it right. The Will-o’-the-Wisp had blended into the sunlight itself.

It wasn’t hiding or covering, it had become one with nature!

And having summoned such forms of spirits, what was Prea trying to say now?

“… You mean, you can know exactly what the spirits see and hear?”

“Hehe, don’t you know why I insist on solo play yet?”

“Ah— Aah!?”

Leeha had to reconsider his earlier thoughts.

It wasn’t that she lacked social skills. She played solo because there was no need to travel with many people.

“I naturally need various types of spirits. That way, I can move, hunt, and grow without being restricted by any environment.”

She could easily gather all the information coming from all directions!

A slight shift in thinking made it obvious. Not only when Prea met Leeha, but whenever she met any user, she spoke assertively in a clear voice.

Some may have called it ‘lack of social skills,’ but on the contrary, it could be said that it was because she had already grasped the other person!

‘In some ways, she might be even more—’

She might possess more exceptional espionage abilities than Chiyou.

Leeha thought again.

If she displayed anxious behavior or spoke in untrustworthy words, he would have wished for her to stop the espionage and stand by his side instead.

But given the current situation, there was no longer a reason for that.

‘If I can trust Prea 100%. If Prea acts 100% on my side—’

He could see more.

He could get the information from Bluebeard’s side with even firmer trust.

Even achieving that to perfection would allow them to catch some of Chiyou’s movements.

Leeha barely managed to hold back his trembling body.

He could tell for sure that his sincerity had been conveyed. Prea demonstrated her abilities, which she called ‘trade secrets.’

Now it was Leeha’s turn.

“Prea?”

To show his abilities.

Prea was also looking at Leeha with a slightly relaxed face.

“Yes?”

“Let’s go to the Dark Elf’s village.”

Leeha spoke confidently as he took the lead.
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If only Leeha could show Prea how he was treated in the Dark Elf settlement and explain the new spirit called the Dark Elf Guardian, she would trust him even more.

The problem was that things were progressing slightly differently than Leeha had thought.

Prea’s face, which had always spoken the truth, twisted at that very moment.

“You’re going to the Dark Elves now!?”

“What? Oh, yes. Why are you so distraught―”

“Ha Leeha-ssi? Do you not know what race I am?”

Looking at Prea’s furrowed brow, Leeha realized.

The Spiritualist with white eyes, Prea. A Wood Elf.

“Oh… ah?”

Rankers had led the Wood Elves to destroy the existing settlements of the Dark Elves.

In such a situation, what would the Dark Elves’ reaction be if he brought a Wood Elf user?

‘Haaa… this is really difficult, difficult.’

Even the village chief himself might come forward and plunge a dagger into her neck.

Leeha needed to figure out a way to meet the Dark Elf Guardian with a ‘Wood Elf’. And right at this very moment, when they just arrived at the Dark Elf settlement!

Sasasak―!

Before Leeha could finish speaking, a few shadowy figures descended from the trees. They were Dark Elves with eyes full of fury.

* * *

Tatar extended his left hand forward to confuse the opponent’s vision and strengthened his grip on the scimitar in his right hand.

“Please step aside, Ha Leeha.”


“Uh, um, Tatar. This Wood Elf here is… my colleague…”

“How could Ha Leeha refer to a mere Wood Elf as a ‘colleague’? Step aside. If their mana has confused you, I will immediately sever her neck and treat you.”

Tatar’s eyes were ablaze.

Even the Dark Elf with the most familiarity with Leeha was in such a state, not to mention the other Dark Elves from the search party around them.

“Like I said, I thought the Dark Elves must have a connection to spirits since they are also elves, so I once visited another settlement of theirs before… Oh, if only we could communicate—”

“Shut up, cursed being! Do you think we wouldn’t attack just because you hide behind Ha Leeha, who carries the power of the hero and protects our tribe?”

“Right! Because of you lot, Takado― Pia is!”

“I’ll kill you, wood elf!”

Even a mere shrug from Prea made the Dark Elves flinch, ready to pounce.

Leeha quickly stepped in front of Prea.

It was Tatar’s words that gave Leeha, who had been in constant trouble, a breakthrough.

“Tatar.”

“Yes, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Please guide us to the chieftain.”

Persuading and pacifying the Dark Elves to pass through? Leeha didn’t have the time nor the reason for that.

“But taking a Wood Elf along―”

“I am the guardian of the Dark Elves. Do you think I would do anything to harm you? If you think so, I will leave immediately and never return.”

Every word from Leeha, who had saved all the Dark Elf tribes, was as good as a law.

Though Tatar showed an aggressive look for a moment, it was only fleeting.

“I apologize, Ha Leeha-nim. I will guide you to the chieftain right away. Go ahead and inform them.”


“Yes!”

Tatar sheathed his weapon and led the way.

When he took the lead, the other Dark Elves in the search party swiftly climbed back into the trees and moved quickly.

—My God! Guardian? What is that? How did you, just with words, make it possible for me to enter the Dark Elf settlement?

Prea whispered to Leeha in astonishment. Leeha replied with an awkward expression.

—You’ll understand when we get there. It’s related to why I came to this place.

They successfully passed the first checkpoint on their way to the Dark Elf settlement.

Leeha, feeling slightly embarrassed by his unusually high-handed attitude, was nonetheless satisfied with the outcome.

The issue was what lay ahead.

Namely, whether he could bring Prea along to meet the ‘Guardian Spirit’ of the Dark Elves.

The path to the Dark Elf village required navigating through a maze-like forest.

Even Leeha, who usually had a good sense of direction, found himself confused several times by similar-looking crossroads and landmarks until finally, the village of the Dark Elves appeared.

To be precise, the Dark Elves themselves appeared before the village.

“Welcome, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Chieftain? It has been a while.”

The person leading the group of Dark Elves outside the village was the chieftain. Leeha greeted him, a bit flustered.

The chieftain wasn’t the only one who came out.

Nearly all the Dark Elves following the chieftain shouted simultaneously,

“We are honored to host the Guardian of the Tribe!”

“It’s an honor!”


The treatment he received immediately after earning the 〈Medal of Honor〉 in the royal palace of Fibiel was less impressive. In terms of sheer enthusiasm, it was not an exaggeration to say that it surpassed even Kijung’s visit to the Vatican of Ezwyn.

Considering that these beings weren’t wealthy NPCs with ample resources, but rather refugees whose village had been utterly destroyed, the reception was indeed impressive.

“T-Thank you, everyone.”

Leeha awkwardly raised his hand and waved.

Despite their cautious glances at Prea, the Dark Elves applauded Leeha fervently.

“Bringing along a ‘companion’ Wood Elf… You indeed exceed our expectations, Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Chieftain, you can treat me like you did before. Haha.”

Had their affinity dwindled because he had brought a Wood Elf or taken a high-handed stance with Tatar?

Leeha grew tense at the chieftain’s changed tone.

Thankfully, that wasn’t the reason.

“For saving the tribe’s cursed one… How could I casually address Ha Leeha-nim?”

“The cursed one…”

The chieftain of the Dark Elves was different from the others.

He was one of the few who remembered Kaztor from childhood.

While he had decided to eliminate him for the tribe’s sake, did he also feel a personal sense of empathy and pity?

As Leeha muttered in response to his words, the chieftain quickly waved his hands.

“No, that was just a soliloquy. Please forget it. Follow me. I’ll guide you.”

Leeha nodded at him.

Amid the warm reception from the Dark Elves, Leeha and Prea followed the chieftain into the largest tent.

The tent gave a much stronger sense of a ‘village’ than it had during their earlier attack by the Wood Elves.

Even inside the tent, Prea was looking around curiously.

Tatar served a coffee-like tea, and Leeha briefly recounted the matter of Kaztor to him.

Since word of the Dark Elf’s death had already spread, the chieftain wasn’t very surprised.

With a calm expression, he listened to the story while sipping the tea, and only then did Leeha get to the main point.

“I came to talk about Kaztor, but… I also have another reason for my visit, chieftain. Do you know what that might be?”

“I’m not sure. However, since you brought a Wood Elf with you… I can guess to some extent.”

While the chieftain spoke, Prea continued looking around.

Leeha could still not feel any spirit energy. His ability to detect spirits was very low, to the point where he could only barely sense them if they were summoned.

But Prea?

—Do you sense anything?

—Very… very faintly. It feels like something is there, but it’s almost as if there’s nothing. I thought the Dark Elves might be hiding a spirit… Hmm.

Of course, her detection ability was better than Leeha’s. Still, she didn’t recognize much.

Leeha nodded at her response.

Their physical strength didn’t come from nowhere. If it manifested in forms like {Forbidden Rage} in Leeha’s necklace, functioning similarly to a buff, then it would naturally not be detectable by {Spirit Detection}.

Now was the time to confirm it.

“I would like to see the Guardian Spirit of the Dark Elf Tribe.”

Leeha cautiously opened his mouth. The chieftain nodded.

“Of course. The Guardian Spirits will surely want to meet Ha Leeha-nim.”

“Great! Then please guide—”

“However, only Ha Leeha-nim. Although we can accommodate Ha Leeha-nim’s ‘companion’ in the village, allowing a Wood Elf to meet our tribe’s Guardian Spirit is impossible.”

The chieftain’s firm response to Leeha’s request left no room for negotiation.

Leeha slightly furrowed his brows.

“This person is my comrade. It would not be an exaggeration to say that I can trust her 100%. Nonetheless, are you saying it’s impossible?”

Today, Leeha didn’t come here for a quest request.

Leeha had come as the protector of the Dark Elf tribe. Hearing Leeha’s strong accent, the chieftain’s face momentarily showed surprise.

“Not this wood— no, did you mean this person…?”

“Yes. Do you remember when Kidd, Luger, and I came here last time? I also do not have a good relationship with the Wood Elves. However, this situation is different.”

Leeha turned to look at Prea.

Ever since the word ‘guardian spirit’ had been mentioned, everything that followed, including Leeha’s statement of 100% trust, came as a shock to her.

That she looked more surprised than the Dark Elf chieftain was evidence enough.

“Please guide us, chieftain.”

The chieftain picked up his teacup to hide his expression. After a moment, he finally spoke.

“Even if I accompany this Wood Elf along with you, Ha Leeha-nim, the guardian spirits will never tolerate it. Their intrinsic energy inherently rejects the Wood Elves. From the beginning, their energies are fundamentally incompatible.”

“Who are they that you say this?”

Leeha swallowed dryly. He could instinctively tell that he was almost there.

The chieftain smiled lightly at Leeha’s question.

“They are why we can be Dark Elves. Anger and destruction, and chaos and powerlessness.”

“Anger— powerlessness, destruction, chaos… is that all—”

Leeha repeated each word the chieftain mentioned. Prea, who had clues from Leeha, also figured it out.

Could it really be?

Only the chieftain’s confirmation remained!

With the gaze of the users fixated on him, the chieftain nodded.

“They are spirits. They are the grateful ones who protect us.”

“No way! Spirits? Spirits!? Spirits of wrath, destruction, chaos, and powerlessness?!”

Prea stood up abruptly, letting out a shocked scream.

Leeha was equally astonished.

‘From the moment they mentioned guardian spirits in plural form, it was strange— it wasn’t just wrath!’

Wood Elves had the four elemental spirits. Compared to Wood Elves, who were born with basic affinity, what about Dark Elves?

‘They existed. And— four spirits opposing the four elemental spirits!’

Having gained unexpected information, Leeha and Prea exchanged glances. Leeha quickly asked the chieftain.

“Does that mean the Wood Elves cannot see the guardian spirits…?”

“We are Dark Elves. The guardian spirits naturally have the attribute of darkness. Unlike us, who are intrinsically familiar with darkness, wood elves do not have that affinity. If anything, they are opposing forces, so the guardian spirits attacking Ha Leeha’s guest—”

“No, no, no!”

Interrupting the chieftain’s polite explanation, Prea shook her head as if it would break her neck.

“Yes, yes?”

“I have it! The attribute of darkness! Spirits!”

Click—!

Prea snapped her fingers once more.

Shades appeared alongside her.

“The affinity for the attribute of darkness, which started at a negative, has risen by more than fifty percent! I have achieved many accomplishments— uh.”

Prea stopped mid-sentence and covered her mouth.

In her excitement, she had inadvertently mentioned her ‘status’, a basic secret of Middle Earth!

Leeha widened his eyes at her.

There would be more than one or two accomplishments related to affinity with spirits of darkness.

However, wasn’t there a noteworthy achievement with such an attribute that Leeha had recently obtained?

“〈Grudge Eater〉…?”

“… How does Ha Leeha know that—?!”

Hearing Leeha mumble, Prea’s eyes widened.

While Prea was shocked by the new spirits of darkness and Leeha was surprised by Prea’s achievements.

“How, how can this be— how can spirits of darkness be with a Wood Elf…?”

The chieftain was equally astonished.

Even contracting with spirits of darkness and converting the affinity for spirits of darkness that started at a natural zero—!

The tent that had fallen silent as if in a mouse’s peace buzzed with activity about five minutes later.

The chieftain lifted the carpet in the tent, revealing four jars situated as if in a pit.

“Let’s go. I will let you meet them.”

Hearing the chieftain’s words, Leeha and Prea high-fived.

The cheerful sound of clapping resonated throughout the Dark Elf village.
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Prea couldn’t calm her pounding heart. Leeha could see that as well.

Instead, she was so exhilarated that she wasn’t even making a sound. Her steps as she followed the chieftain were light as a feather.

From the first time he saw her until now, she had been walking barefoot.

Looking at the snow-white feet of the wood elf, Leeha suddenly felt curious.

“But doesn’t walking hurt your feet? The forest ground looks like it would be quite painful to walk on barefoot. Do you have low synchronization?”

“Oh, my feet?”

“Yes, you’re barefoot.”

“Ah! Ha Leeha, you don’t know? It only looks like I’m barefoot! For wood elves, even if they are wearing shoes, it appears as if they are not when they are spirit summoners, druids, or shamans.”

“What? Really?”

“You are underestimating Middle Earth’s concept too much. Hehe.”

Prea’s laughter was different from usual, and it seemed she was revealing things she would normally keep secret or laugh off to maintain her mystique. Now, she was kindly answering even Leeha’s trivial questions.

With shining eyes, she whispered to him.

―But how did you know about the Spirit of Wrath? Do you know other spirits too?

―I had a rough idea about the Spirit of Wrath, but others… this is my first time. Actually, I wanted to ask you, Prea.

―I didn’t know! Those shade guys are so mischievous, they never give straightforward answers and only play pranks! I suspected there would be other dark attribute spirits, seeing as there’s even a Terror Spirit. By the way, my main factor for dark attribute spirit affinity came from my contract with the spirit of darkness. Come to think of it, Ha Leeha, you are a benefactor. If you hadn’t lifted the contract restriction with the spirit of darkness for me, I would be… it’s terrifying just thinking about it!

Prea, walking backwards to look into Leeha’s eyes, suddenly winked.

It was something Leeha was sure he would never see on a normal day.

―I never expected to hear such words from you, Prea. Haha, the world sure is strange.

―Why? Didn’t I thank you multiple times before?


Prea playfully remarked at Leeha’s surprise, but Leeha had a different reason for why he said that.

―Back then, you were lying. You just wanted to get on my good side and extract information from me. Weren’t you?

The reason the same compliment from the past felt different now was because it had been too obvious.

Leeha wasn’t someone who could be called adept at dealing with people, but he had met many users and NPCs.

Deception, flattery, and threats were such common “basic skills” in Middle Earth that numerous entities employed them.

Leeha knew Prea had been no different.

Listening to her words, her eyes opened wide momentarily, and then her snow-white pupils curved into crescents.

―So, you think I’m genuine now?

―If this is all an act, Prea, you could be an actress, probably even sweep an Academy Award in the real world.

The true nature of someone revealed through their gestures, expressions, and words.

Leeha felt he understood a little more about what kind of person Prea really was.

‘Maybe…’

She might be the purest and simplest person he had ever met in Middle Earth.

Perhaps the reason she could increase her affinity with spirits so quickly and diversely was due to her nature.

“Tatar.”

“Yes, chieftain.”

After a short walk, following the chieftain and the dark elves carrying urns, the chieftain finally stopped.

“Place them there. And ensure no one from our tribe gets within a 50-meter radius.”

“Understood.”

It was a place roughly 2 kilometers away from the dark elf settlement, according to Leeha’s perception.


The surroundings didn’t look much different from an ordinary forest.

Carefully placing the four urns down, Tatar and the dark elves swiftly began to guard the area.

The chieftain only looked at Leeha and Prea after they were all in place.

“Only the guardian of the tribe, Ha Leeha, has the right to contact the guardian spirits. So, when Ha Leeha opens the lids of those urns, they will respond.”

“Aren’t you going to stay here, chieftain?”

“In normal circumstances, I cannot approach the guardian spirits either. Usually, I can only make contact after offering prayers for more than a week, and only if they respond to those prayers. Just as Ha Leeha’s… ‘companions’ might be in danger, so could I.”

Despite being the guardian spirit of the Dark Elves, the Dark Elves themselves couldn’t approach easily.

The chieftain moved in the direction where Tatar had disappeared, asking to be called once the ritual was over.

“Ha! As expected, the dark attribute spirits are different.”

Just as Prea murmured, Leeha too felt like he knew why dark attribute spirits were so rare.

Unlike common spirits, spirits related to darkness or fear were concealed by absurd secrets just to encounter them.

“Right? Ahem, are you ready?”

“Yes! Quickly! Hurry up!”

Prea stuck close to Leeha, swallowing nervously. Leeha cautiously approached four old jars.

Each of the four jars had different patterns engraved on the lids. After briefly examining them, Leeha quickly opened all four lids.

“Here we go!”

Blazing────────!

Light burst forth from the jars. The figures of Leeha and Prea standing in front of the jars disappeared.

* * *

“Kyahhh!”


“Wh-what is this―”

Prea screamed, flailing her arms.

Leeha also needed to look around and feel dizzy for a moment. At least to him, it looked like a place he had seen once before.

‘The Royal Archive! It’s that space!’

A space where even the concepts of up and down were unclear.

The myriad of things around them looked like ‘stars,’ but this was not outer space.

Leeha and Prea were slowly falling downwards.

“What, what is this place?! Celestine! Come out! Elerestra! Ignis!”

Prea frantically called the names of the spirits.

Leeha fully understood her confusion.

Wasn’t he just as flustered when he first entered the Royal Archive?

‘If it’s different from the Royal Archive― it must be this sensation of falling?’

Though nothing touched their feet, they didn’t feel like they were floating.

Something seemed to be gradually pulling them downwards, like there was gravity, but without acceleration.

Moreover, the lights—the ‘stars’—around them remained stationary even as Leeha and Prea felt like they were falling.

Leeha thought it could only be described as the absurd sensation of falling while being fixed in place.

“Ha Leeha!”

“Ye-yes!?”

“The spirits aren’t responding!”

“Spirits!? Speaking of―”

『Wood Elf…? And one who is contracted with twelve spirits. Except for one, they all seem like those I’d love to beat up.』

『He’s contracted with fear. Haven’t seen those guys move lately. There’s a black one too.』

A deep male voice sounded from somewhere.

The first voice was that of a man with gritted teeth.

It was the kind of voice you’d expect from someone ready to throw a punch. However, compared to the second voice, it wasn’t as alarming.

The second voice was calm. If the first voice was from someone holding back from throwing a punch, the second was from someone who had already made up their mind.

It was the resolve of someone who would strike before their opponent could speak.

The common trait of both voices was that they induced tension in those who heard them.

『Hmm―! Does he have that? It feels like he could be the reincarnation of Allen Srna even though he is human? I recall that these entities haven’t gone through the same cycle of rebirth as us.』

『Anyway, it’s a hassle. Better teach them a lesson next time.』

The next two voices sounded like women.

The first voice rose at the end, as if questioning itself, and the second voice was faint, as if from someone with their back turned to Leeha and Prea.

Of course, what mattered was not their voices but the content.

Leeha paid close attention to the information contained in the first voice.

He wanted to ask Prea directly, but hesitated as he was cautious about the situation at hand—especially about that very topic!

“Twelve spirits?”

Leeha knew about the four great elements, darkness, light, and even the “ice” spirit.

In total, he thought there were around eight or nine spirits, including the few he was unaware of.

But twelve?

Just as Leeha glanced at Prea with surprised eyes, she also glanced back at him.

She was thinking the same thing.

‘I don’t possess anything special. But why mention the name “Allen Srna”, a ‘wood elf’, calling me a ‘human’? There’s only one human here! What exactly does he possess—’

She knew she was the most exceptional spiritualist in Middle Earth.

With that, she also knew her limitations. Allen Srna was the ultimate goal all Spiritualists pursued.

She had yet to fully uncover the types of spirits that existed in Middle Earth, let alone deal with the first-time-mentioned “spirit king” level entities talking about Allen Srna.

Moreover, the term “possess” seemed to be referring to an item.

‘An item related to Allen Srna? No way…’

After that fleeting moment when Prea and Leeha locked eyes, something suddenly appeared in the endlessly vast universe.

Two male-shaped and two female-shaped entities appeared in front of Leeha and Prea. Each of them looked at the two in various forms.

In their eyes was only one thing.

Overwhelming hostility and massive negative energy directed at Leeha and Prea.

They could no longer look at each other.

Leeha spoke first.

“Uh, hello! My name is Ha Leeha! I recently resolved an issue with the Dark Elf tribe, and I, uh, earned the right to meet you all. I just wanted to greet you, cough, and, uh—”

『What a curious child. Wearing clothes imbued with the water spirit, contracted with a soul that contains the fire spirit, has promises with the spirit kings of earth and wind, and even met the spirit king of snow and ice—』

『He only contracted with Uncanny, right? Want to get hit? Shouldn’t we call in the spirit king of fear in this case? Don’t make a fool out of us.』

The first female-shaped entity and the first male-shaped entity spoke.

Leeha twitched but couldn’t step back.

『You.』

The second female-shaped entity briefly asked Prea.

The white-eyed spiritualist, for the first time, was flustered and hurriedly greeted.

“I-I am spiritualist Prea. It’s a great honor to meet the esteemed spirit kings. Although I’ve only been able to contract with Shade, I always strive—”

『Shut up before I break your jaw.』

The second male-shaped entity sternly addressed Prea.

She immediately closed her mouth. They had faces full of hostility or annoyance.

They alternately glanced at Leeha and Prea several times without saying a word.

It seemed certain that they were displeased with spirits of non-dark nature, including the four elemental spirits.

—Something feels wrong. What do you think?

—I don’t know either. They said we have authorization to meet guardian spirits, not that they were “friendly!”

But would they really attack us? They seem like spirit kings—

—The higher the rank of the spirit king, the more free they are to do as they please, you know that.

Leeha also realized this again.

Only the spirit kings of snow and ice and water maintained dignity as spirit kings.

The Fire Spirit King was wild, and although he hadn’t met the spirit kings of wind and earth, they would attack anyone approaching their goal of “world tree protection” without question.

Could they really be attacked?

While the two nervously waited, a decisive male-shaped entity finally spoke.

『We can’t kill the one who saved our creation, the dark elves, and the one who tempted the dark spirit king. I am Bozmak, the spirit king of destruction.』

Bozmak, the spirit king of destruction. The second male entity.

As he spoke, the first male entity, who had been grinding his teeth, sighed and mentioned his name too.

『I didn’t think I’d tell my name to a human and a wood elf. Reminds me of Allen Srna’s time. I am Ofke, the Spirit King of Wrath.』

Ofke, the Spirit King of Wrath.

『Seeing them trying to follow Allen Srna—well, both of them together attempting to chase his footsteps? Pleased to meet you, I am Karghasha, the Spirit King of Chaos.』

『Halsyzrik.』

The first female voice murmured as if questioning herself. She was Karghasha, the Spirit King of Chaos, and the one who mentioned only the proper noun was Halsyzrik, the Spirit King of Lethargy and Sloth.

The four fundamental spirit kings forming the Dark Elf tribe finally accepted Leeha and Prea.

Simultaneously, fanfare resonated in their minds.

*Ba-bam—!*
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『Achievement: One Who Has Stepped into the Spirit Realm (S+)』

Congratulations!

As a living being of Middle Earth, you have entered the Spirit Realm, a realm where no physical or mortal being can exist. Here, only the essence can be tangible! What do you look like now? How do your spirits look? What will you discover and gain in the Spirit Realm? And what kind of relationship can you establish with the spirits residing here? Under the name of ‘Allen Srna’, the spirits will watch over you. However, remember that their goodwill does not last long.

Reward: 30 Stat Points

Spirit Realm Affinity for the described attributes +20%

(Applies to Wrath, destruction, chaos, lethargy and sloth)

Other Spirit Realm Affinity +10%

You are the first registrant of the 『One Who Has Stepped into the Spirit Realm』 achievement.

The names of the first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and double the initial effects will be granted.

Effect: 60 Stat Points

Spirit Realm Affinity for the described attributes +40%

(Applies to Wrath, destruction, chaos, lethargy and sloth)

Other Spirit Realm Affinity +20%

“An S+ rank… and even Spirit Realm affinity!”

It is not divided by dark or light attributes, but by specific Spirit Realm affinities!?

If we assume that the four attributes listed belong to a broader dark attribute, then this affinity would add to the existing dark attribute spirit affinity.

‘If Prea had gained this achievement, then?! She already claimed a 50% affinity with the entire dark attribute. This would mean—’

She would have 100% affinity with at least the four dark spirits: Wrath, destruction, chaos, and lethargy and sloth!

Leeha quickly turned his head.


Prea was gazing at the air with a look of ecstasy.

Since this achievement is categorized under ‘special experiences’ rather than ‘discovery of a new location,’ and the Hall of Fame exists, both Leeha and Prea would be entitled to it.

If she had reached 100% affinity with each specific attribute spirit, she might have obtained achievements that Leeha hadn’t.

‘That’s highly probable. That expression, that face… Pfft.’

Prea turned to Leeha with a satisfied smile on her face, brimming with tension and excitement. Leeha couldn’t help but let out a small laugh.

Prea’s smile conveyed far more emotions than a simple thank you ever could.

Only then did Leeha look at the Spirit Kings.

“Thank you for accepting us.”

The tension and fear that had gripped him moments before were now gone.

Their affinity had risen sufficiently, and it was their acceptance that triggered such an achievement.

If they had rejected or refused to accept Leeha and Prea, they couldn’t have obtained the achievement.

『Don’t be so happy; it’s not because we like you.』

『Hmmm… Just when I thought someone other than that guy might enter, it turns out to be humans and wood elves. What are our folks even doing outside? It’s infuriating.』

The Spirit Kings of Destruction and Wrath grumbled.

Their tone was still somewhat jarring, but at least Leeha could now discern their spirits’ tendencies.

“Um, Spirit Kings! Have you made any contracts recently?”

“Prea? What suddenly—”

“Heh, Leeha-nim may not know, but we must verify such things.”

Having likely reached 100% affinity, Prea took a more proactive stance than Leeha.

『Recent? We don’t operate within your temporal units; a comparison would be confusing to us, don’t you think?』


『No, Allen Srna is recent.』

The Spirit Kings of Chaos and lethargy and sloth also answered.

It was clear that none of the four Spirit Kings were easy conversationalists.

“Allen Srna is recent… I see. Among dark elves?”

『You should know, wood. Dark elves don’t use spirits, only their power.』

The Spirit King of Destruction clenched his fist.

In the black void, his fist rippled.

『You should know. If you know, inform us in advance and save us the trouble.』

The Spirit King of Wrath spoke with an annoyed expression, his gaze falling on Leeha’s necklace.

The necklace, used by the dark elf hero, able to manifest ‘Forbidden Wrath’, served as proof that dark elves used not spirits but their power!

“Yes. I couldn’t clarify due to my lack of insight. I apologize.”

『Hmph, I thought you ignored us because you hung out with Fear, but apparently not.』

Though Leeha could have assumed, the difference between certain facts and assumptions compelled him to verify.

The Spirit King of Wrath crossed his arms as he listened to Leeha’s polite apology.

At this point, Leeha began feeling as if he were dealing with irritable old men.

Prea continued her conversation with the Spirit Kings of Chaos, and lethargy and sloth.

To make a contract, what should one do, and what is the true nature of this spirit world?

『This is the dark attribute spirit realm. Or should I say, a part of the spirit world? Perhaps it’s more accurate to say it’s a part of the dark attribute spirit realm? Although we took it apart, not all dark attribute spirits are here.』

『The comprehensive spirit world is a bother. Ah, the place where everyone interferes with everyone and all have power. Those other spirits are remarkable, being able to live in such a place.』

“Does that mean you’ve moved a part of the spirit world here?”


Leeha asked this while listening to the story of the Spirit King of Chaos and lethargy and sloth.

The response came from the Spirit King of Anger.

『Yes. Someone like Allen Srna understood it straight away. But you lot still have a long way to go.』

“I think I get it!”

Prea raised her hand and looked at the Spirit King of Anger.

Before he could utter a complaint, she quickly spilled out her thoughts.

“A comprehensive spirit world where all spirits are together! And it can be largely divided into the light and dark spirit realms—so you mean you’ve taken a part of the dark spirit realm and brought it here! The four of you did this, so not even other dark attribute spirits can be here! Right?”

『Correct. Strictly speaking, it’s not that we took it but rather we destroyed a part of that place and made it into a fragment.』

The Spirit King of Destruction nodded in agreement with Prea’s thought. Only then did Leeha get a clearer sense of what this place was about.

“Oh…”

The reason neither the Spirit King of Darkness nor the Spirit King of Fear was visible was because this place was a spirit realm and at the same time an isolated spirit realm.

The Spirit King of Anger shouted around that time.

『That’s why it feels wrong! This was supposed to be our own space!』

“Huh, what?”

Leeha asked in confusion.

Prea, who had been chatting with the Spirit King of Chaos and lethargy and sloth, was also startled by the high-pitched tone.

The Spirit King of Destruction, who was standing in front of Leeha, looked at him.

『What are you?』

“I— I’m a human. As I mentioned earlier, I’ve met the Spirit Kings of Water and Fire, but it wasn’t a direct contractual relationship―”

『I am not talking to you. What are you?』

The Spirit King of Destruction’s eyes were intense.

Leeha made eye contact with him. However, he could only gaze into his eyes but could not truly “meet” his gaze.

The Spirit King of Destruction, a male with thick, bushy eyebrows, wasn’t looking at Leeha.

‘Huh…?’

His eyes were fixed behind Leeha, beyond him.

Feeling a sudden prickly sensation, Leeha slowly turned around.

There was something dark there. Since the surrounding universe was filled with darkness and there was nothing else besides the surrounding “stars” to see, Leeha hadn’t paid attention to his rear.

But there definitely was something behind him.

A black mass that moved too naturally to be smoke and had too much form to be a liquid.

It was then that an all-too-familiar voice was heard.

―Heh heh heh… This spirit world is marvelous, isn’t it, contractor?―

Leeha couldn’t fail to recognize that voice filled with arrogance and confidence.

“Ahhhh!? Bl-Black?”

He quickly grabbed Black Bass that was slung over his shoulder.

The cold, hard feel of metal was just as it always was. The weight was no different from usual.

There was just one difference.

―I can come out like this, you see.―

Even as Black Bass spoke, no light emitted from its bolt.

* * *

“H-H-How―”

―Heh heh! This is the spirit world, after all, isn’t it? No reason to be surprised.―

“Ha Leeha…?”

At Black’s words, Prea looked blankly at Leeha.

Although her question was ‘What kind of spirit is this?’, the one truly bewildered was Leeha.

“Because it’s the spirit world? So what? You’re not even a spirit! How could―”

『It’s because it has a consciousness. Damn it, this is why I hate bringing just any old thing into the spirit world.』

『Hmm, but it’s quite a curious type. It’s not related to God, nor is it a dark attribute spirit. If we had to classify it―』

『Is it demonic. You, do you have any connection to Le, ghibrid or Pyrot-Cocri?』

『Ugh… Those entities are too diligent, I don’t want to deal with them.』

Each Spirit King offered their own comment.

Even amid the buzz, Leeha could still hear all their conversations.

At least one thing was certain.

“In the spirit realm, beings with self-awareness must have a tangible essence—oh! Come to think of it, this was mentioned in the achievements earlier!”

This place did not permit physical, corporeal forms. It meant that one’s essential form had to be revealed.

So, what happened to the egos, the Ego items, that existed “within items” from the start?

How could their essence be manifested?

“They must reveal their form!”

Leeha muttered.

『Myong!』

This implied they had to be taken out of the items.

As Leeha murmured to himself, jellypong gave him a pleasant smile.

Seeing something that shielded and protected him appearing in its essential form, Leeha responded with a smile.

Meanwhile, black Bas and the Spirit Kings were still in a standoff.

Black Bass let out his trademark laugh for a moment, then spoke.

—If it’s said to be related to the Demon King, wouldn’t it be the same for you? All dark-element spirits must have been born in places where the Demon King had stayed.—

『Insolent! Remember that I can pull you out right this instant.』

The Spirit King of Destruction frowned but made no special move.

Leeha was momentarily confused about whether he was angry at what Black Bass said or the tone in which it was said.

However, he had to admit that what Black Bass said was not entirely wrong.

“Yes. Even water spirits—and didn’t the general elemental spirits also emerge from where gods resided?”

Though it happened a long time ago, he vaguely remembered incidents related to the Dragon Palace. Prea certainly had this knowledge.

If light-element spirits were born from where gods had resided, then what would be born from where the Demon King had been?

It seemed almost obvious when thought through carefully.

While Leeha organized his thoughts, the Spirit Kings directed their gazes toward him.

『You. Are you related to the Demon King?』

『If you were to become a successor of Allen Srna, wouldn’t such a path be impossible? Wasn’t that your goal?』

“Huh? Me? Uh, excuse me?”

『Yes, you. Who else? No one else would roam around with such a repugnant being.』

As Leeha pointed to himself and asked, the Spirit King of Wrath became heated.

To think he would be accused of siding with the Demon King’s Fragment just for using Black Bass.

Leeha was also momentarily bewildered.

Just a few days ago, he had fought against the Demon King’s Fragments and risked his life in battle against Chiyou, the first minion of Bluebeard.

What should he say, and how far should he go for them to believe him?

With so much to explain, Leeha’s tongue got tied momentarily. Prea was the one who opened her mouth.

“That’s not true. While it might have something to do with the Demon King, it’s not necessarily on the same side, right? Even dark-element spirits like the Shades didn’t like the Demon King’s Fragments. I don’t think the ‘thing’ embedded in the item Ha Leeha used is on the same side as the Demon King’s Fragments.”

Prea stared directly at the Spirit Kings.

Looking into their eyes, she added with a guileless smile.

“If you think that way, then you yourselves could also be related to the Demon King’s Fragments, right? As the ‘thing’ said, all dark-element spirits are born due to the Demon King.”

It was a statement that could trigger the wrath of the Spirit King of Wrath perfectly.

* * *

『Impudent Wood Elf!』

『There’s no need to intervene.』

『Does she think she’s a special Wood Elf? Sure, dark-element spirits may not dislike her, but… does she believe she’ll gain anything by showing such an attitude to us?』

The Spirit King of Wrath looked ready to charge at Prea, but the Spirit King of Destruction and the Spirit King of Chaos restrained him.

Being suspended in midair while simultaneously feeling the sensation of falling, Leeha and Prea found it difficult to respond properly.

If they had been attacked just now, Prea would have been in great danger.

Moreover, in this place, where their skills might not even function properly, any action would have been risky.

Leeha was nervous.

He appreciated Prea standing up for him, but it certainly was out of character compared to her usual demeanor.

‘Someone who desired dark-element spirits more than anyone—’

To see her confronting the king of the dark-element spirits for his sake.

Leeha looked at her with momentarily surprised eyes.

As Black Bass’s faint laughter echoed, Prea shrugged her shoulders.

“Rather, you should be thanking me. If the noble Spirit Kings heard ‘the truth’ that you wrongfully attacked an innocent spirit approaching you out of misunderstanding, bad rumors would surely spread.”

『Ha! Rumors, you say. Didn’t we tell you that we control this spirit realm? No spirit can come here now.』

“But I can certainly deliver this truth to others. I can leave here, after all.”

Prea was confident.

The Spirit Kings’ expressions twisted.

Rather, those who saw her attitude, including Leeha, grew more anxious.
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– What are you talking about? Prea-ssi, are you leaving just like that? We don’t even know how to get out of here. What if they kill us for no reason? Didn’t you come here to get the dark attribute spirit?”

Unable to hold back, Leeha sent a whisper, but Prea didn’t look at him. However, he could see the corners of her mouth slightly curling up as she looked at the Spirit Kings.

“Since Ha Leeha-ssi showed one thing, I should show one as well. I think we need to get along ‘better’ from now on.”

“Excuse me? What do you mean?”

Before Prea could respond to Leeha’s question, the King of Spirit of Power adopted a reclining pose in the air.

『Looking at that confidence, it must be a top-grade Rainbow Spirit. If a rainbow bridge is formed, you can escape.』

“That’s correct.”

『Rainbow? The Rainbow Spirit? I felt the aura of a contracted spirit, but… already a top-grade Rainbow Spirit? Are you saying it can form a bridge?』

『Hmm…』

『Tch, annoying. There are two who aim for the next Allen Srna’s place.』

The attitudes of the Spirit Kings, who had been full of annoyance, anger, and negative energy, softened a bit after hearing those words.

“Rainbow…?”

The Rainbow Spirit. Leeha had neither heard of it nor even considered such a type of spirit.

– I believe you will keep it a secret. The Rainbow Spirit can help you escape any space, from small instance dungeons to places like this.

– Ah!

Among the five hidden spirits beyond the seven Leeha knew, one of them was the Rainbow Spirit.

‘No, I’ve never even heard of such a thing. Did Prea find something that even the communities in Middle Earth haven’t discovered? No, it’s beyond just finding it—’

It meant she had reached the highest grade among the spirits, just below the Spirit King.

Compared to ordinary users who hunted using one advanced spirit from the four major elements and one or two intermediate or low-level spirits, what level was Prea’s skill?


– Does that mean there are no spatial constraints? Can you escape even if a barrier-like skill is used?

Leeha hastily asked.

Prea pondered for a moment before responding.

– Hmm, I mentioned that I could use the dark spirit to learn about Le’s whereabouts, right?

– Yes.

– Then before contracting with the dark spirit—before Ha Leeha-ssi informed me about it, how do you think it would have been?

– I would have to hear it directly.

– You know roughly where their main hideout was, right?

Leeha was even more surprised than before.

Where was the main area where the Demon King’s army personnel usually operated?

Not just Chiyou or Sasuke, even Bluebeard had faced Prea’s sudden appearance without knowing the reason. They could only assume she had heard it from another person belonging to the Demon King’s forces.

Because that place could only be accessed in such a manner.

It was a place where you couldn’t utilize skills to store or record locations within a crystal ball.

‘The eastern part of the New Continent! Skills even worked there—no, does that mean she could travel using the Rainbow Spirit?’

But no, that wasn’t it.

A place where even teleportation by a dragon’s skill wasn’t possible.

Even flight-related skills were restricted, and one would have to travel on foot unless willing to suffer significant losses.

Prea’s capability implied she could go to a place with a far more potent mana interference flow than a usual ‘spatial barrier.’

Not relying on mana-based skills but through the spirit itself.

‘Crazy! The Rainbow Spirit is also overpowered.’


Leeha was momentarily dumbstruck.

He felt that there was one more reason added to Prea’s insistence on playing solo. Because she could gather plenty of information alone, she didn’t need anyone else. Alone, she was just as strong as a party.

‘And she can’t risk leaking her own information to others.’

To protect herself, she must have played the game alone thoroughly.

To the extent that the existence of the Rainbow Spirit hadn’t been revealed until now.

―Oh! And even though these guys are pretending, they’re no different from the spirits I’ve met before, okay? Leave them to me. Haha.

Leeha couldn’t understand what Prea was thinking as she looked at him.

When she revealed her secrets, she felt a slight sense of relief, and seeing the four new types of Spirit Kings made her quite happy.

Leeha observed Prea’s confident demeanor as she faced them.

“Of course, I won’t use the Rainbow Spirit to escape and badmouth you all. I’m just a humble Spiritualist who wants to befriend you and explore the world together. If you trust my abilities, and consider the bond we’ve built and will continue to build, that is.”

Her nickname was Prea, also known as the 『White-Eyed Spiritualist』.

She ranked 10th overall in Middle Earth’s rankings and 1st in the Spiritualist rankings.

“Would you make a contract with me?”

Reputation wasn’t built in a day.

As all the Spirit Kings remained silent, Black Bass, who stood behind Leeha, let out a sinister laugh.

―Hehehe…―

* * *

Leeha watched the contract process between the Spiritualist and the spirits for a while.

Although the Spirit Kings showcased their specialties, they couldn’t destroy or incapacitate Prea in the end.

More than anything, Prea’s confident presence as a Spiritualist must have fascinated them.


‘To be exact, it’s because of her 100% affinity.’

During the time the contract and proficiency measurement, which felt like a test to determine which grade of sub-spirits would be with her, took place, Leeha had his own matters to attend to.

“So… what’s the deal? Demon?”

―After spending all this time together, you still don’t know about me?―

“No, I know. I know, but I didn’t expect you to be affiliated with demons…”

―I am connected to the roots of demons but not a demon. Do these spirits look like they are related to the Demon King’s Fragment?―

“Hmm, probably not. I could sense the hostility toward Le and Ghibrid. Well, considering that, they were also hostile towards me.”

Conversations with Black Bass flowed more smoothly than usual.

Although her clear form couldn’t be seen, her aura felt like a thick bubble or whipped cream, showing a distinct texture.

However, it was difficult to distinguish as the color was pitch-black, blending with the background.

“Can’t you appear more clearly? Even with the 〈Distorted Eyes〉, I can barely make out the outline.”

―Don’t forget, I am still incomplete.―

“Ah, the charge rate?”

At Leeha’s question, Black Bass’s form wiggled slightly. Leeha understood it as a nod.

Black Bass’s charge rate was currently 50%.

The fact that it hadn’t decreased was fortunate, but she needed to consume a deity or a demon to reach 100%.

―Hehehe! If you fire at them here, I wonder if I can consume them. I’ve never swallowed spirits in the Spirit Realm before.―

“You don’t even know yourself. But wouldn’t it rise somehow? As you said, if dark attribute spirits are rooted in demons, it means extracting demons from dark attribute spirits is possible.”

―That might be true. Would you want to try? I welcome it anytime, contractor.―

Leeha’s words were logical.

Black Bass agreed as well.

It was certain that it had never been attempted before and equally certain that Leeha wouldn’t be the one to attempt it.

‘No matter what, shooting Spirit Kings… that’s insane.’

No one knew what would happen.

Moreover, with Prea close to completing the contract now, it was even less viable.

Prea had poured out her secrets and revealed the existence of the Rainbow Spirit.

By this point, a perfect bridge of trust was forming between them.

‘It’s a pity I can’t contract with them.’

Leeha smacked his lips with regret as he watched Prea contracting with the Spirit of Strength.

Right after Prea tried to contract, Leeha had also made a proposal to them, but they didn’t accept it.

‘What’s the deal with that bastard, Uncanny—the Spirit King of Terror—that other dark attribute spirits dislike him?’

It was clear that there was an affinity relationship even between the Spirit Kings.

And despite being the same attribute, the other Spirit Kings didn’t look kindly upon those who had already accepted the Terror Spirit.

One day, Leeha thought he would summon Uncanny and investigate thoroughly.

“So, when you reach 100% and come here, will you appear like a human?”

―I will appear in the way the Contractor finds it easiest to understand.―

“That’s a shame. It’d be interesting if I could summon like this outside too. You and Jellypong, and Koma—oh, Koma is always a bear.”

『Myooong—!』

If one could see Blaugrunn, Jellypong, and Black Bass in human form outside the Spirit Realm, how chaotic and powerful would their legion be, especially with a child among them?

‘Would it be possible to shoot a gun then? Or is it more like extracting the essence of the self? If so, would they still be able to fire guns? And what would happen to their skills? Wait, from the beginning―’

“It’s over!”

Just as Leeha was about to dive into an endless train of thought, Prea shouted.

“Oh! Yes!”

The four Spirit Kings who created the Dark Elves stood behind Prea. They still seemed to harbor some hostility, but their expressions had noticeably softened.

“Did it go well?”

“Two high-grade, one top-grade, and one intermediate. Well, that’s excellent.”

Of course, this was because Prea’s skill had satisfied the Spirit Kings. For her first contract made without even having seen spirits before, to summon high-grade and top-grade ones already, she would quickly ascend to handling top-grade spirits as she becomes more experienced in spirit usage.

『If you’re done with your business, leave. Humph, you two becoming Allen Srna. Humans haven’t evolved but rather devolved.』

“Yes! We should head back immediately! But how do we get out, Ha Leeha-ssi?”

The Spirit King of Wrath grumbled. Prea seemed relieved, but Leeha felt somewhat disappointed.

“Um, I don’t know how to get out either. Should we just say that we plan to exit?”

It was only natural for Leeha to hope for additional gains besides achievements now that Prea, who controlled all the spirits, was on his side. The Spirit Kings eyed him. More precisely, the gazes came from the three Spirit Kings other than Wrath.

“… Uh, is there something wrong?”

『Considering you saved the Dark Elves, it’s pretty weak.』

『It’s also a pity you’re not a Spiritualist.』

『Just give it quickly.』

The Spirit Kings of Destruction, chaos, and lethargy and sloth approached Leeha. Although he wanted to back away, he couldn’t move as he pleased in this place. While watching him in this state, the Spirit King of Wrath opened its mouth.

『Keep using the 〈Forbidden Wrath〉 as it is! Instead, I will halve the constitution it consumes from you.』

Momentarily, Leeha couldn’t comprehend. Forbidden Wrath was a skill attached to the Dark Elf’s necklace, decreasing total HP but significantly boosting attack power.

“Decrease constitution…?”

『I shall grant you my power of destruction. Please contribute to the protection of the Dark Elves.』

Before Leeha could respond, as the Spirit King of Destruction spoke, a flash of light erupted from Leeha’s body.

You have learned the skill―Single Destruction.

“Uh―”

『To protect the few from the many, you need more than just strength, right?』

This time, it was the Spirit King of Chaos. Another flash of light burst from Leeha’s body.

You have learned the skill―Reservoir Dogs.

“Skills―”

『No need to think about it. Just knock them all down. Leave quickly.』

The last one to speak was the Spirit King of Power. When she spoke, there was no flash of light.

“Woahaaa―”

Feeling like being sucked into a whirlpool, Leeha and Prea’s bodies began to descend.

It felt like infinite falling in an endless cosmic space!

“Goodbye, Spirit Kings! I’ll return as a top-grader as soon as possible~!”

Even in the midst of this, Prea bid the Spirit Kings farewell. They were already drifting far above. How long had it been since the feeling of falling rapidly?

Just as another system window appeared before Leeha’s eyes, You have learned the skill―Burn Out.

You have leveled up.

Thud.

Their feet were now firmly planted on the ground.

“Oh!? So, we come out like this. And I leveled up too!”

Prea, in her elated state, jumped around with joy. White light continued to emanate from her body. Leeha couldn’t help but grin widely.
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He had thought he wouldn’t gain anything, but the creators of the Dark Elves couldn’t let the protector of the Dark Elf clan go empty-handed!

“Damn, suddenly three skills? Wait, and they even reduced the penalty for the 《Forbidden Rage》 skill? Doesn’t that basically turn a hero item into something close to a legendary one?”

He wanted to immediately open the system window to check. However, he needed to follow the proper order.

Letting the Dark Elf chieftain know of his return took precedence.

“Phew… it feels like I went to another world. Oh, Ha Leeha-ssi! I have something to ask you—”

“That… yeah? Something’s strange.”

As Leeha looked around to find the Dark Elf chieftain and Tatar, he realized something had changed.

He felt a sense of discord so strong that he had to cut off Prea’s words.

“Huh? What is?”

“No, it’s just… something—oh, the time!”

“Time? Oh, now that you mention it—”

Had it been around three hours since they were in the spirit realm? Although the contract with Prea’s spirit took quite some time, it certainly did not exceed four hours.

Since they had entered when the sun was at its zenith, it should now be afternoon. Simultaneously, Leeha and Prea raised their heads.

The sun had not yet reached its zenith.

“Did time go backward?”

Leeha immediately corrected his thought. Time going backward was impossible in Middle Earth.

Then what was left?

As a chill ran down his spine, a buzzing voice echoed inside Leeha’s mind.

―Hyung! Where were you yesterday?


―Uh, Kijung?

―What were you doing that you couldn’t be contacted? I even reached out to Aunt, and she just said you were in-game. Whispering didn’t work at all—

―Huh? S-slow down, buddy! What? Whispers?

Whispers had not come through.

Even if they had, what kind of event took place during the maximum of four hours they had been in Middle Earth that would make Kijung react like this?

‘No, no. So… it wasn’t just four hours. Could it be—’

Leeha recalled something he had heard once. Before the forests around the World Tree in the center of the New Continent were contaminated.

He had heard it from the spirits of wind and earth when he received the ‘Seed of the World Tree.’

『The World Tree doesn’t grow just anywhere. It’s better to store power in the spirit realm. If you gather strength there and plant it in this land, it will grow much faster. At more than 1,000 times the speed.』

“Time… the flow of time—”

“It changed! I can’t believe such a thing…”

Even Prea, who hadn’t known originally, could tell now. All the summoned spirits around her were indicating this very fact.

There was also someone to explain it to Leeha.

“In reality, 24 hours is equivalent to five days in Middle Earth—but the ratio must have been twisted—”

How much time had exactly passed? Only Kijung knew.

―Whispers? I tried all day yesterday, all night long! I watched Tiamat rampaging right before my eyes!

Four hours in Middle Earth corresponded to four hours in reality.

If four hours in reality meant almost a full day in Middle Earth, it wasn’t odd for Leeha to feel as if he had traveled back in time.

However, that wasn’t the remarkable part.

―What did you say?


―Tiamat moved. All 38 of the Old Continent’s chromatic dragons have crossed over to the New Continent.

―What!?

What timing could have been spoken of for it? Even if he had known the timing, what could Leeha have done?

All he could do now was act as quickly as possible.

“Prea!”

“Yes, yes?!”

“The contracts with the spirits are definitely complete, right? You can use them here immediately?”

“O-Of course! Should I show you now?”

Called out loudly by Leeha, Prea looked flustered.

It was just that his voice had grown louder due to the urgency of the situation, but it was the first time Prea had seen Leeha in such an emotional state.

“No. No need to show me. Instead…”

Leeha took a moment to organize his thoughts.

In the end, suspicion couldn’t be helped.

Someone who betrayed once could betray anytime. But right now, he had to trust.

Considering the upcoming battles, only trust was the way to survive.

“From now on, we need to trust each other.”

Leeha spoke to Prea as if seeking confirmation.

She hesitated for a moment but then nodded.

“Of course. After working together so far, there’s no benefit in betrayal. Introducing me to the four types of dark elemental spirits… I will never forget that.”

Prea extended her hand.


Leeha nodded and shook hands with her.

His face remained stern, but there was still a place for a faint smile.

The same went for Prea.

* * *

She had already noticed.

What was in Leeha’s bag? Something significant enough for the Spirit Kings to mention the legendary Wood Elf Spiritualist, ‘Allen Srna’, to a human user who made a pact with a terror spirit.

Besides, even while possessing “that”, he did not use it to threaten, persuade, or lure her.

‘What I was searching for through Chiyou is in Ha Leeha’s bag.’

If she had read the explanation of 〈The Key to the Spirit World〉, she would know that every spiritualist user and NPC in this world would desire it.

Someone like Ha Leeha couldn’t possibly be unaware of this.

Nevertheless, he did not approach her with a forceful attitude.

Even when he showed such tendencies occasionally, he always adhered to the principle of a 1:1 exchange. When Prea offered something, he would reciprocate, and when she completed a mission, he would show something in return.

‘A person as pure as a spirit. Pfft, interesting.’

When Prea looked at him and laughed, Leeha was momentarily flustered. Moreover, why was this handshake so lengthy?

“Um, well, I am quite busy now―”

“Of course. Anytime.”

“―Oh, one more thing. Since we agreed to trust each other 100%, I have something to inform you. Did you know the Queen of the Chromatic Dragons, Tiamat, has fully revived?”

“Of course.”

She knew more than just that.

Through the dark spirit, she had seen Tiamat’s human form.

She was confident Tiamat wouldn’t make any movements for a while.

That is unless a special variable arose.

“While we were in the Spirit World, she caused havoc. Prea-ssi, please look into it.”

“What, what? Tiamat― No, how―”

“I don’t know either. So please look into it. I need to report to the Dark Elf chieftain and then head over right away. Jellypong, let’s go!”

『Myooong―!』

Jellypong immediately started moving with agile, three-dimensional maneuvers. Leeha started heading towards the Dark Elf NPCs, including Tartarus.

Prea stood there, stunned and bewildered at the spot Leeha had just left.

‘Tiamat? Bluebeard said it wasn’t the time for movement yet, so how?’

Prea briefly looked in the direction where Leeha had disappeared. Then, she snapped her fingers.

“Kisisit, why, why, why?”

“Where have you been?! The familiar scent has intensified!”

The dark spirits gathered around her.

If it were any other time, Prea would have interacted with them to strengthen their bond, but she didn’t have the leisure now.

“Shade, tell me everything you heard near Le in my absence.”

“It was fun! It was fun!”

“Yes, yes! Tiamat! That six-headed dragon finally showed its dragon form! My, my! A dragon with six heads! We are lucky to see such a sight because of our contract with you!”

The dark spirits started chattering excitedly.

Prea still couldn’t fully grasp the situation.

“Dragon form? Didn’t Le say that was impossible? How? They said if Tiamat took dragon form, it would be uncontrollable, so she would stay in human form for the time being, right? Did I mishear?”

She recalled what the dark spirits had said only a few days ago. Currently, there are users on the Demon King’s side.

In other words, the story was set to progress continuously!

Even a few days ago, with Faust by her side, such an event hadn’t occurred. At least, Tiamat hadn’t moved in dragon form except for the time when she had just been reborn.

‘But how… so suddenly?’

As Prea tilted her head in puzzlement, the dark spirits began to transform.

She watched as they turned into a black mist.

『This creature appeared! Kisisit, one type of Chromatic Dragon! Black!』

“black dragon? The Onyx of Minis?”

『Right! Onyx!』

『It came leading the dragons! The battle went boom―bang―pow but they said it was fine!』

Other dark spirits transformed into shapes of multiple small dragons.

The dragon models made of black mist flew haphazardly before Prea’s eyes.

Prea began to grasp the situation.

The Chromatic Dragons moving from the Old Continent to the New Continent wouldn’t have gone unnoticed by the Metal Dragons.

‘But they couldn’t act. If Bahamut moved, Pyrot-Cocri would awaken.’

Did the users come forward to stop it?

But as long as there was a high-level dragon capable of breaking through even spatial barriers with them, it surely wouldn’t have been easy to hold them back.

“So? What happened? How many dragons appeared before Le?”

『Thirty-eight!』 『Thirty-nine!』 『Forty!』

“No way, it couldn’t have been more than 38! So, all 38 dragons appeared, huh. Practically, they brought every dragon except those below the juvenile level. No, rather…”

Did they all arrive before Le and Tiamat without a single straggler?

『Kshss! It got interesting from then!』

『Yes, yes, yes!』

『Humans chasing behind! And the moment Onyx spoke to Tiamat—!』

The black mists shaped like dragons scattered into the air.

Shuuu…

The black mists began to gather together. Prea swallowed dryly as she watched.

She had realized what they were trying to depict.

‘The shape they are forming now… Tiamat!’

Fwaaaaaa—

Finally, the black mist took on a specific form.

Perhaps because they had merged into a complete shape, they were now expressing a firmer and smoother texture.

Prea saw Tiamat’s true form, depicted as if it were made of black metal.

“This is… the Six-headed Dragon.”

Even in a model, it was a presence that seemed capable of utterly eroding the will and morale of anyone who saw it. The queen of the chromatic dragons stood there.

* * *

“Ram Hwayeon!”

The place where Leeha arrived was a fortress located slightly to the west of the central area of the New Continent. It was the fortress of the ‘Partisans,’ a coalition group of Paleos, newly established after Ram Hwayeon’s deployment plan was approved.

As Leeha knew, it had only been completed about three weeks ago in Middle Earth time and was a stone fortress, not a wooden one, largely built with the labor of the Paleos.

“Ha Leeha!”

Ram Hwayeon halted her steps as she attempted to rush towards Leeha.

Seeing the expression on her face, where she bit her lower lip tightly, Leeha could tell that she was holding back—suppressing her resentment and sorrow, as well as her joy.

There was only one reason, of course.

The place already laid in near ruins, with walls more than half-collapsed and structures toppled, presenting a desolate scene.

Only the makeshift command center barely retained its shape.

There, Ram Hwayeon, some key figures of the Partisans, a few warriors from the Celestial Army, and a handful of renowned users were gathered.

“Kijung.”

“Hyung. Sorry for yelling earlier.”

Kijung raised his hand towards Leeha with a weary face.

Embarrassed by his passionate outburst when he first made contact with Leeha, his voice was now substantially subdued.

“What happened? What is all this? Why is the fortress like this?”

“Ki, kik! Where were you that even ignored whispers, Ha Leeha?”

“Ignored! No, it was an area where whispers couldn’t reach. More importantly, what happened? Where is Tiamat?”

Biyemi spoke to Leeha in his characteristic mocking tone.

Despite already knowing from Kijung that Leeha had been in a special area where whispers couldn’t reach, he spoke in such a way, seemingly out of frustration.

When Leeha mentioned Tiamat, several sacred creatures of the paleo tribes flinched.

“Magnificent. I thought I had gotten used to dragons, but… that was not a dragon. There was no way to withstand it.”

“Hudid….”

Hudid, the mystical creature of the Black Crane paleo tribe, shook his head.

As the number of Paleos able to fight in the air was extremely few, if something had happened with Tiamat, surely he was at the forefront.

Leeha was about to ask something, but Hudid quietly closed his beak.

What exactly happened and how?

Which users and Paleos had come, what kind of battle took place? How strong was Tiamat, and what form did it take?

Leeha looked around for someone who could explain all this.

Neither the boisterous Bobae nor the equally strong-natured saintess Raphaela spoke a word.

There were many questions to ask, but few mouths willing to answer.

The quickest way to impress the current situation upon Leeha was already known to someone else. Hyein, who was quietly rummaging through a bag behind Kijung, took out a crystal ball and handed it to Leeha.

“Ha Leeha-ssi.”

“Ah, yes.”

“Take a look at this, and you’ll understand.”

“Did you record it?”

In response to Leeha’s question, Hyein nodded.

TL’s Corner:

Finally, some action.
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“It wasn’t just me. Probably a huge number of users have tried it. I bet many videos will be uploaded on YTube.”

“Ah!”

At least 2 to 3 hours must have passed in real time.

The users who had experienced a commotion in Middle Earth were now likely fanning the flames of discussions in external communities.

Leeha received the crystal ball from Hyein.

Then, he quietly played it.

* * *

“Kay!”

The place where Hyein arrived by teleportation was one of the forts of the paleo in the western part of the New Continent. It was a grassland far away in the east from the shared management area of Juma City.

『Hyung! Block the space! Make both teleportation and movement impossible!』

Kijung shouted at him as he watched.

“Got it! Damn, what’s going on—”

Hyein drew a large magic circle on the ground and looked up at the sky.

Fortunately, not all dragons used spatial movement techniques simultaneously, but the problem was that their movements were sudden and relentless.

Hyein had received the alert when they started relocating collectively from Minis towards the east.

That was just a few hours ago.

No one in the Sea of Dawn, no key figures in Kraven and Minis, could hope to stall for time against the chromatic dragons.

“Block them! Slay all the dragons, my children!”

Black— Crane────!


From the skies, flocks of black cranes moved toward the dragons.

On the ground, under the command of the divine creature Harhei, the gorilla paleo controlled large catapults and ballistae, forming an anti-air defense network.

Beside them, the bonobo paleo tried to create a fire net by shooting guns, but it was not enough to catch the 38 dragons flying in the sky.

“We must not let them escape! Somehow—we have to catch them! Hwajung!”

“Yes, I’m ready.”

Ram Hwayeon overlooked the battlefield from a vantage point, directing the paleo and monitoring the battle’s progress.

『Kyaaaaaaaah—!』

Near the chromatic dragons heading in one direction, a silver dragon was fiercely unleashing breath attacks.

When Arzenmacht’s ice-laden breath aimed at one of the adult chromatic dragons and was about to hit, the breath simply evaporated in mid-air.

『Onyx!』

『Not a chance, Arzenmacht.』

Onyx’s technique of nullifying the breath itself was truly on the level of being called an elder among chromatic dragons. Thanks to Onyx, the adult chromatic dragon barely escaped and initiated evasive maneuvers.

However, Arzenmacht was not disappointed.

He looked down at the ground.

“〈Abyssal—〉”

At that moment, a violet light flashed next to Ram Hwayeon.

One of the strongest skills after the second job change was a magic that even the genius of Middle Earth, Ram Hwajung, couldn’t use while moving intensely.

Using it on the ground? The Abyssal Ice required time to hit its target. Given that it wasn’t a perfect targeting skill, there was always a risk that the target might evade it. In other words, there was the risk of wasting such a significant skill!

Ram Hwajung, who used refraction of light and ice to create illusions, would never let that happen. Moreover, there was a strategy possible thanks to having a ‘partner.’

Ram Hwajung was the leader, Arzenmacht the support!


By the time Ram Hwajung safely finished casting, Arzenmacht closed in on the enemy.

Then he activated the skill, 〈Partner: Summon〉.

“〈—Ice〉.”

The girl standing on Arzenmacht’s long neck let his blue hair flutter in the wind. From Ram Hwajung’s tiny hand, abyssal cold was unleashed.

─────────────!

“Whoa!? Something’s falling!”

“Hmm, is it hail? The sizes are no joke.”

“That little rascal, what kind of skill is he using this time!? Everyone, be careful! 〈Multiple Arrows〉!”

Jin Gonggong, Tale, and Bobae had to be mindful of their movements.

Although Ram Hwajung hadn’t directed his skill towards the ground, the power of the Abyss Ice was enough to freeze all the air within its shooting path towards the target.

It gathered, grew, and fell as hailstones, capable of causing secondary damage. The pressure felt by the dragons directly exposed to the cold air drawn from the abyss was beyond imagination.

『Danger, it’s dangerous!』

A dragon flapped its wings and veered to the side.

Other chromatic dragons in the vicinity hurriedly moved to make space, but the adult and ancient-class dragons weren’t just sitting ducks.

『Block it! It must not touch us!』

『Red will handle this! Hrrrrrrr―!』

Mana gathered at the snouts of two red dragons. One ancient-class and one adult-class dragon immediately exhaled their breath.

───────────────!

『We will assist too! 〈Ignition Fire〉!』

『〈Flame Strike〉!』


Putting out fire with water was a common sight, but extinguishing ice with fire was rare. The users on the ground were momentarily spellbound by the fierce clash of fire and ice in the air.

The hail had now transformed into a tremendous downpour, slowing even Hyein’s actions as he drew magic circles, showcasing a stunning spectacle.

“One user alone… without any significant help…”

To withstand all sorts of fire magic, including the full-strength breath attacks of two dragons, was astonishing.

The product of a top-ranked user who had completed the second job advancement, using one of the mightiest second job skills, was indeed remarkable.

『Insufficient.』

“Yes, it won’t work.”

Ram Hwajung shook his head.

Just before all the mana drained from his body, Arzenmacht transformed into a human form and teleported, holding his.

In the spot where the silver dragon had just been flying, numerous fire magics passed by.

『No! We must block it!』

“Hang in there, everyone! 〈Holy Force: Area〉!”

Following Kijung’s words, who had used the skill 〈Dinosaurization〉, the paleo clan and Bobae tried long-range attacks, but it was futile.

Even with the attack power enhancement buff from Raphaela’s holy power, the situation didn’t change.

They managed to break some of the dragons’ barriers or strip a few scales, but couldn’t inflict a fatal condition.

Under Onyx’s command, the dragons displayed perfect formation flight.

When one got injured, it moved into the formation, swapping places with a healthier dragon to recover sufficiently or defend with layered shields, minimizing damage.

No matter how exceptional the users were, their lack of numbers made the situation unavoidable.

Having Hyein present was at least a small stroke of luck in this misfortune.

“Everyone, prepare to attack!”

Once, he had broken the spatial lock of the ancient dragon Bailephus and had even troubled Kuzgunak’sh, a spatial magic genius, who now planted his staff into the magic circle.

“〈My Space〉!”

Zooooomng─────────!

The thick, low sound resonated like the bell of a New Year’s Eve.

The light purple explosion from Hyein’s body grew infinitely larger.

The dome-shaped barrier, expanding much faster than the dragons’ flight speed, finally extended beyond the chromatic dragons and stopped there.

Tuuuung―!

『Screech! Is this a mana barrier? No, spatial confinement?』

The leading dragon fiddled with the suddenly appeared barrier. Onyx, flying slightly behind, furrowed his brows and shouted.

『My Space! For a human to already use spatial magic at this level! Break it with all your might!』

The elder of the chromatic dragons instantly recognized it. Upon hearing the name of the magic, the dragons understood it too.

『Hyung! Those guys―』

“It’s okay, kay. My Space is different from a regular barrier. It can’t simply be broken by someone stronger than me! Hurry, block it!”

Having exhausted all his mana, Hyein collapsed right after finishing his words.

Still in his “Dinosaurization”, Kijung led the paladins and defensive forces protecting the central part of the New Continent, charging towards the dragons.

“Huuuu…”

At that moment, they heard a loud noise.

―Oh no, there’s a space barrier― Pei Wu-nim! There’s a space barrier!

―It, it’s impossible to proceed from here, captain Karelin!

Hyein turned his head at the voices coming from behind him. Two groups hesitated in front of the barrier he had set up.

“Great Swordsman Hyein! Could you lift the barrier?”

It was Pei Wu and the Yellow Dragon he commanded.

“Are you a member of Byulcho Guild? We’re here to assist from the ‘Sacred Alliance!'”

And the other group was Karelin of Shazrashian and the giant forces he led.

Though they were a proximity attack-focused group, their long-range attacks were not entirely impossible. Moreover, the aerial mobility of Pei Wu would undoubtedly be of significant help.

Hyein didn’t lift the barrier. Instead, he shouted.

“Just come in! Everyone I’ve designated as an ally can enter! Hurry!”

This was the biggest difference from a regular barrier.

Pei Wu and Karelin made expressions of realization and jumped in first.

It was almost as though a significant portion of the forces meant to defend the Western New Continent were now gathered here.

Hyein stood up, using his staff for support.

He had to provide at least a brief explanation of the current situation to them.

“Alright, if things continue like this― it will take at least 20 minutes before ‘My Space’ is broken. In the meantime, if we can reduce even one of those Colored Dragons…”

As Hyein alternated his gaze between Pei Wu and Karelin while speaking, he noticed that their expressions had suddenly stiffened.

Both were staring at a specific point far beyond his, somewhere high in the sky.

Hyein quickly turned his head.

“Hmm…?”

The sky was darkening.

A massive storm cloud was heading towards Hyein’s “My Space.”

It was an artificial move that completely defied the direction of the wind. And all the Colored Dragons, seeing this, had stopped flapping their wings, merely staring into the distance.

“Whoa, whoa! Something’s coming―!”

“Great Swordsman Hyein’s barrier is here! No matter what, even that thing won’t get through!”

They started hearing the shouts of the users who’s already moved quite a distance away.

“Yes! Lady Raffaella’s shield― there’s also a barrier―”

────────────!!!!

“Urgh―”

Hyein covered his eyes with both arms.

The suddenly emitted light was of a brightness incomparable to that of a level-up effect.

The amount of light, to the point where it could genuinely damage eyesight, continued for quite a long time. Only when the light started to dim a little did Hyein lower his arms.

“Ah…”

All he could produce was a single groan.

The more than thirty Colored Dragons visible from afar, those ‘things’ didn’t even register in Hyein’s eyes at that moment.

Outside the barrier of “My Space,” a massive snake-like creature, combining the size of several dragons, came into view.

“That is…”

Tia───ma───t!

Moreover, it wasn’t a single snake wriggling.

Six bodies and six heads were tangled, moving ceaselessly.

The six-headed dragon, Tiamat, had revealed its true form.
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『What is that size! No, more than that—』

“It, its form, its form is ridiculous! I definitely heard it was a dragon! But that’s not a dragon! That’s more like…”

Kijung and Jin Gonggong screamed.

Hyein, looking at it, could think of one of the creatures from a fantasy.

“…a dragon?”

The queen of the chromatic dragons, the six-headed dragon Tiamat, took on a form closer to an Eastern dragon. No, it resembled a Hydra from myth, a dragon with multiple heads.

Six dragons entangled like snakes, struggling in midair without wings!

They were so massive that they filled the entire sky, dominating the field of vision!

Even users who knew about the six-headed dragon could only imagine a regular dragon with a few extra heads, so the shock of seeing Tiamat’s true form was even greater.

“This size is ridiculous. Where on earth are we supposed to attack? And what is that… thing?”

Hyein barely managed to stand, using his staff to support himself.

Her legs had gone weak, and standing was a struggle.

Despite being overwhelmed by the monstrous size that defied comprehension, Hyein noticed a particular characteristic of Tiamat.

“It has… arms.”

Tentacle-like arms sprouted from the bodies.

The tentacles, protruding at regular intervals on their six torsos, emitted extreme revulsion.

The sight of the six bodies writhing and flailing with those arms bore an almost indescribable and unbearable level of disgust.

“Attack quickly! There’s no time to rest! Hurry, Kijung! Before Tiamat breaks in!〈Twisted Shot〉!”

Bobae raised her bow with trembling arms.


On the verge of losing all her strength due to instinctive fear, the mental fortitude of an archery athlete kept her focused on the target.

『All Paladins, cast now! Aim for the Onyx! Attack before Tiamat breaks the barrier!』

Kijung hurriedly resumed his command.

“If we can’t hit the Onyx, then focus on the closest Chromatic Dragon! Start with the Yellow Dragon on the far left!”

Ram Hwayeon encouraged the nearby Paladins, sharing information about their targets. However, the commotion did not translate into many actions.

At this moment, it was only the ‘Eastern users’ who quickly regained their composure and attempted a counterattack.

Other than having some differences with dragons, they had some understanding of the concept of a dragon.

But for Western users?

It was like when a foreigner first sees a basin filled with countless loaches, gnawing at each other’s bodies.

Except each loach was enormous, filling the entire sky, stretching from one end of the horizon to the other.

The reactions of the people seeing this for the first time were identical to those upon seeing Tiamat.

Crushed by the menace exuded from its grotesque appearance and scales, western users were too stunned to even move.

“All Yellow Dragons, prepare to charge! Users below level 240, support with talismans!”

The forces that recovered the fastest were Pei Wu and the Yellow Dragons.

Since they were all Chinese, they were not overwhelmed by the monstrous form which was, at least, a variation of the Eastern dragon. But the problem didn’t end there.

“What should we attack?”

Pei Wu frowned as he heard a guild member’s question.

Seeing 38 Chromatic Dragons filling the sky like an impenetrable wall was indeed frustrating.

“The Chromatic Dragons! Our main target is… ugh, but—”

Pei Wu shouted.


However, even he could feel that they had already lost. The presence of Onyx, the most notable among the 38 dragons, was overshadowed by Tiamat and was barely noticeable.

“What exactly is the main body?”

“I can’t figure out where we should even attack.”

Defeating the Onyx? The guild members, distracted by Tiamat, could not focus.

Pei Wu, too, was trying to figure out which part of her writhing body was the main body and its weak point, which might have been natural for a player.

『Onyx! Attack the Onyx!』

“Don’t lose focus, time is— there isn’t much time!”

“Attack! Just attack it, even a little bit—”

Despite Kijung, Bobae, and Tale yelling to motivate those around them, it wasn’t progressing as they hoped.

The users who had once been entranced by Tiamat found it hard to regain their focus.

The chromatic dragons that had been hovering in the air also started to move slowly.

They no longer tried to leave the barrier.

Was it because they had seen Tiamat?

The direction in which the chromatic dragons were moving was clearly towards the users.

“Co-counterattack! It’s a counterattack! Quickly, focu―”

Just as Hyein was about to run, holding his staff in a hurry, a clear sound echoed amidst the meaningless shouts that conveyed nothing but confusion.

Bang─────!

“Ha!”

“Huh?”

“A gun?”


The users turned their heads in the direction of the gunshot, as if by sheer reflex, as if some hope lay there. This included Kijung.

They saw the one who had fired the gun.

The person, who had deeply pressed down his hat, threw it away and shouted.

“Get a grip! Tiamat hasn’t entered yet! Focus on the battle in front of you!”

With his shaggy beard and worn-out coat, it was Browless.

His voice, known from Musket Academy, still roared. Upon hearing him, the users snapped back to attention.

『That’s right! We have to fight while the barrier is still intact!』

“Come here for necessary potions and buff scrolls!”

“Let’s take them one at a time! Start with the one at the front!”

Finally, the users reorganized themselves.

And just as they were about to focus all their firepower on one advancing chromatic dragon, Hyein’s gaze turned in the opposite direction.

“No way…”

Crackle!

It wasn’t just the sound. Deep cracks that crossed the entire light violet dome were visible to everyone.

“H-how is it already?”

They had poured all their mana into it. They had given everything until they couldn’t recover, yet the barrier couldn’t last even five minutes?

Even an Ancient Dragon would need to focus on breaking it for more than thirty minutes, or so they had confidently affirmed about the barrier.

Hyein was flustered.

Whether he was flustered or not, Tiamat was already presenting a clear answer.

Your barrier is meaningless.

The moment the My Space Skill was broken, Tiamat roared.

Roaaaarrrrrrr!

The air quivered and the ground trembled.

As the users saw Tiamat in its vivid, untouched form – not even the ‘light violet filter’ concealed it – they lost any will to resist.

“Run, run, run awaaay―!”

“We’re all gonna die! Run!”

The spread of fear was instant.

In Hyein’s sight, numerous users and NPCs were rushing forward like a tidal wave.

As soon as the spatial barrier broke, the dragons set up their own barrier. Teleportation was impossible.

It was then that all six of Tiamat’s heads opened their mouths.

“Ah…?”

Hyein could see it.

The six different lights gathering into the six widely opened maws.

He could clearly see how enormous the beam launched by the massive entity was.

One of the beams from Tiamat’s breath grazed past them, hitting the fortress where Leeha and the users were currently gathered.

* * *

“How many users were obliterated by those six beams? How many NPCs vanished?”

Since Tiamat’s breath attack, the scenes Leeha had been witnessing couldn’t even be described with terms like battle or counterattack anymore.

“How… could this…”

The Chromatic Dragons, led by Onyx, were committing an indiscriminate, one-sided massacre. Could he even say it was fortunate that Tiamat hadn’t breathed again?

Even amidst all this, the surviving users fought valiantly.

However, their resistance was too weak to even provide minimal relief, like peeing on frozen feet.

Kijung, positioned at the rearmost, tried to save as many people as possible while maintaining his dinosaur transformation.

Ram Hwayeon transferred her remaining mana to Ram Hwajung, enabling her to use her skills a few more times.

But none of these actions had any meaningful effect.

No matter how hard they tried, they couldn’t slow down the rate at which users perished.

The users were slowed, poisoned, and disoriented by the breaths of the Chromatic Dragons, eventually meeting their demise.

“It was… serious.”

Leeha frowned deeply.

“Alexander wasn’t there… Hyung wasn’t there either.”

“Nor was Lee Jiwon. Among the top-rankers, only Pei Wu was there, but he too fell back when the formation crumbled.”

Seeing Leeha’s dismayed expression, Kijung and Bobae spoke gently.

“If the Metal Dragons were there, could they have stopped it? If Bahamut was present?”

“…”

Kijung wanted confirmation from Leeha, but it was a question that no one, including Leeha, could answer.

Could Bahamut stop Tiamat?

As if analyzing the cause of their defeat, Hyein spoke up.

“The defensive line was too wide. Even with quick whispers and relaying messages in polymorph state, it took time to gather.”

Biyemi added his thoughts.

“Ki-kit, it’s unfortunate that we got ambushed by the Chromatic Dragons. How did they know Alexander had logged out and attack at that moment?”

“Exactly. Thanks to Biyemi and Petyr, we contacted Alexander and coordinated to move if the Chromatic Dragons did, but they struck precisely during his logout time. Sigh.”

Hearing Biyemi’s words, Kijung sighed deeply.

As someone who had been gathering intel on the Chromatic Dragons’ movements via Biyemi and Petyr from the start, it was even more regretful.

Tiamat’s resurrection and the Chromatic Dragons’ contact with her – two events Kijung was desperate to prevent had come to pass.

Leeha shook his head as he listened to them.

‘Even if all that had been achieved…’

Could they have killed Tiamat?

With Alexander, Lee Jiwon, the Three Musketeers, and a fully united defensive line given ample time to intercept?

If the Metal Dragons and Bahamut had shown up?

‘Could we capture her?’

Tiamat, the queen of the Chromatic Dragons, her attack didn’t even show up properly in Hyein’s crystal ball.

She had only used her breath attack once.

Other than that, she hadn’t used magic or attempted additional attacks.

They had seen her body, but determining her weak points was impossible. Facing her like that? With just the users?

‘That’s absurd. Simply amassing damage wouldn’t be enough to kill her.’

Even if they addressed all shortcomings from this battle, Leeha couldn’t guarantee victory.

Then he thought of one person.

‘That sword… the keyword is that sword.’

Perhaps only Lark could kill Tiamat, hence she was designed to be an impossibly overpowered entity.

Leeha asked with hope and excitement.
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“Hey Kijung! What about Lark? Was he logged out too? If it’s Tiamat, he’d be running here with his eyes wide open!”

It was not Kijung who answered Leeha’s question, but Bobae.

“…. It was Shin Nara, that girl didn’t even say a word—”

“Huh? What are you talking about?”

“She’s not telling us anything! Ugh, it’s so frustrating! I have no idea what’s going on either!”

Bobae suddenly burst out in frustration.

Leeha knew that Lark was with Shin Nara, but beyond that, he was completely at a loss, leaving him confused.

“Hehe, Ha Leeha?”

“Yes?”

“There should still be a bit of the crystal ball video left. Why don’t you finish it?”

Biyemi pointed at the crystal ball with his fingernail.

Leeha tilted his head in confusion and looked at the crystal ball again.

Quite a number of users were already dead, and the last line of defense, including Byulcho, was retreating.

“What’s this about? Isn’t it over now? They’ve exited the barrier area, and Hyein-ssi seems to be drawing a mass teleportation magic circle—”

“Look closely at the left end. Try zooming in.”

As Hyein drew the magic circle on the ground and lifted his head, something passed swiftly at the edge of his left field of vision.

“Hey—something just—”

It was so far off that Leeha couldn’t recognize it properly.

Biyemi stood up from his seat and approached Leeha. He skillfully manipulated the crystal ball to rewind the video and played it again.


Just at the moment Hyein lifted his head from the ground! Biyemi paused the video.

“Do you see it now?”

“Hmm…it’s so blurry; I can’t make out—”

“Then—how about this? Doesn’t it look a bit clearer?”

Biyemi zoomed in on the crystal ball.

It still wasn’t very clear. Some white and slightly dark blue figures seemed to be entwined?

“Wait a second. This….”

However, one thing was unmistakably clear.

Even though it was hard to discern the outlines due to the distance, one thing stood out.

“A—rainbow—?”

There was a brilliant rainbow trail behind that mass. Leeha knew only one person who could produce such an effect.

“Lark?”

“I just mentioned it. How would they have moved at the time Alexander wasn’t logged in? Can you guess? Did you figure it out, Ha Leeha-ssi?”

What Biyemi regretted indicating was that Alexander hadn’t participated in this battle.

How did the chromatic dragons know Alexander was absent? Leeha understood what Biyemi was saying but simultaneously didn’t want to comprehend it.

“What the… Biyemi-ssi, what are you talking about?”

“I should have said something from the beginning…. I’m sorry, guild master.”

Biyemi bowed his head towards Kijung. Kijung waved his hand, indicating it was fine.

Leeha hurriedly looked at Kijung and asked.

“No way—Kijung?”


“What’s there to ask, hyung. That bastard Lark betrayed us.”

Kijung confirmed it definitively.

“That’s impossible. There’s no way!”

“I even checked with Biyemi and Petyr. There was a time when Alexander went to hunt Onyx, but only the other chromatic dragons reacted; Onyx never came out.”

“What does that have to do with anything—”

“Kikik, Alexander left, and then Onyx appeared.”

“It could be a coincidence! Right now, Tiamat is more important than anyone―”

“Coincidence? Not only Onyx but other chromatic dragons also said something similar like ‘thanks to listening to Lark’s words, they didn’t fall into the trap.’ Even Petyr must’ve heard something similar… Moreover, I have another recording.”

Biyemi fiddled with the crystal ball.

Although everyone’s gaze turned to it for a moment, no user paid particular attention.

It meant that all of them had already seen this video.

The video was short.

After a brief quarrel between Biyemi and Petyr, they fell silent as the video began.

The location was somewhere in a rugged mountainous region, and they were looking at somewhere along the mountainside.

Although it seemed there was nothing peculiar as it was protected by a barrier, the screen wavered whenever chromatic dragons passed by.

Biyemi fast-forwarded the footage, knowing the scene he wanted to show was obvious.

The important part was that chromatic dragons including Onyx were coming and going through the barrier.

And beside them were two humans, captured clearly this time.

“Lark… and Nara…”

Leeha unknowingly turned his head towards Bobae.


Bobae sighed deeply. Trying to calm her earlier rage, she finally spoke.

“Whispering, you know, it’s all blocked. It’s frustrating and annoying not being able to contact them, so I tried calling and texting… All they say is ‘I can’t talk right now.'”

“Now? Can’t talk? About what?”

“That’s what we don’t know. Being with Lark? Following that man? Or perhaps…”

Betrayed.

Whatever it was, it was not a trivial matter.

The reason users including Kijung felt so downcast wasn’t just because of Tiamat’s appearance.

If Lark betrayed them, how should they regard Shin Nara for not stopping him?

Isn’t she a traitor too?

One of the top ten rankers, 8th place Shin Nara, a member of the Sacred Knights, betraying them?

“I don’t think that’s the case. Nara might not even know what she’s doing right now. She’s likely been tricked by that damned Lark.”

Knowing what Leeha was thinking, Bobae added a word.

Drastically changing the course from what they’ve been doing was nearly impossible.

In other words, abandoning all the affinity and achievements they’ve built in Middle Earth was almost the same thing.

All the users knew this, so they didn’t consider Shin Nara a traitor.

They just thought she had fallen into some sort of trap.

Leeha could read their thoughts clearly. And he thought about Lark and Shin Nara.

Why, how, for what reason.

What did their actions mean?

Both had blocked Leeha’s whispers. Both Lark and Shin Nara had a rather special relationship with Leeha, didn’t they?

Yet they acted this way? What could their true intent be?

Leeha finally understood.

He had seen Tiamat’s incredible majesty and the unity of the chromatic dragons. He felt a sense of powerlessness thinking they couldn’t face them even with all their forces combined. But that alone didn’t explain the sense of defeat filling this place.

The reason for the sense of defeat among the gathered users was because of Lark and Shin Nara’s betrayal.

But Leeha thought differently.

“No.”

“Huh? What isn’t?”

“It’s not a betrayal.”

“Yeah, right. You know Shin Nara well and probably kept in contact―”

“No, we didn’t stay in frequent contact. And I’m not talking about Nara.”

“Huh? Then who?”

When Leeha spoke resolutely, Kijung, Bobae, and Ram Hwayeon looked surprised.

“Yes. I’m saying Lark wouldn’t have betrayed us.”

“K-Kikik! Ha Leeha? This isn’t the time for such jokes!”

“No, it’s not a joke. As Biyemi recorded… it’s certain that Lark and Nara may be ‘on their side’ right now. But that doesn’t necessarily mean it’s a betrayal.”

Biyemi tried to question Leeha with an exasperated tone as if asking how he couldn’t see it, but Leeha maintained a firm expression.

He chose to remain silent.

After all, it was rare for Leeha to be this adamant about something.

“Hyung… do you know something? Why are you so sure? Lark… if I’m being honest, he’s a pretty annoying guy! In the early days of the New Continent… have you forgotten? Who else but Lark would know Alexander’s logout time?”

He was someone who went around ‘subduing’ everyone here in paleo.

The one who devised those subjugation strategies and utilized the persistent achievements to benefit the Virtue Knights.

If he had already been aligned with the Chromatic Dragons, and if he had sensed Alexander’s plot to assassinate Onyx using some skill…

Lark was the person who would have considered that the best time for the Chromatic Dragons to move to the New Continent was when Alexander was not in Middle Earth.

That was the point Kijung was trying to make. Leeha also understood it well enough.

‘But… no. It can’t be.’

Yet Leeha was unwavering.

He knew something that the gathered users did not.

“No, it’s not a betrayal. Ram Hwayeon, as you know well, I haven’t been in recent contact with Shin Nara. So honestly, I don’t know much about Nara. But… I believe Nara has her reasons. And those reasons likely tie into Lark’s actions.”

“Kikit, so Ha Leeha-ssi thinks Lark is acting with a certain purpose, and therefore, we should trust both people?”

“Yes. That’s what I believe.”

Leeha looked into Biyemi’s eyes.

Biyemi’s sharp and narrow gaze softened momentarily.

After making a short clicking noise through his teeth, he shrugged his shoulders.

“I guess I should cancel the bounty placed to Petyr. Kik!”

Biyemi and Petyr weren’t ones to let Lark’s betrayal slide.

They had already begun working to socially ostracize Lark from Minis, and now they declared they would cancel that plan after hearing Leeha.

During Leeha’s moment of confusion, Kijung also organized his thoughts.

He looked at his older cousin.

“So, hyung? What will you do now? You know what’s coming, right?”

“Hmm. Tiamat… will come.”

Onyx and the Chromatic Dragons would all cross over.

Neither Bluebeard nor Tiamat would sit idly by.

That was Leeha’s biggest fear, the event Bahamut had warned him to prevent at all costs.

“At the very least, we need to concentrate the battlefield in one area. Kijung, can you manage that?”

“… While dealing with Chimeras would be somewhat easier, preventing teleporting dragons―”

“It won’t be easy, but we can do it. If we line up 40 dragons, they would form a front line about a kilometer long. If they’re packed tightly, we may need to consider at least two kilometers. Any longer would be unmanageable. It might be costly, but we need to purchase a lot of spatial barrier scrolls and place them at intervals. For terrains where regular defenses can’t cover, we will have to use alarm scrolls as our best bet. Concentrate our forces there and reinforce the remaining areas with smaller guilds and paleo, and the forces of the ‘Sacred Alliance’.”

Ram Hwayeon, predicting Leeha’s way of thinking, devised a broad but tight defensive plan centered around the New Continent.

“Ram Hwayeon?”

“This would cost a lot. Maintaining this daily during peacetime would be difficult… but we can hold out for about two weeks. We need to figure out the budget from the ‘Sacred Alliance’ and make detailed adjustments.”

Scrolls inscribed with skills are expensive. Continuously using them to maintain a defensive line for 24 hours isn’t easy.

A long and solid defense setup, with a clear timeframe in mind.

Ram Hwayeon proposed this idea. Whether or not it would be accepted depended on the ‘Sacred Alliance’ commander.

“Alright, do it. And about Ewin―”

“I’ll go. I’ll go with Ram Hwayeon to get the commander’s approval. Hyein hyung, Biyemi, you come along too.”

If Kijung, who had maintained the defense line for so long, spoke, it would carry enough persuasive power. Adding Ram Hwayeon to cover any logical gaps and Biyemi’s intelligence capabilities would be even better.

Kijung instinctively identified the areas where he lacked.

The gathered users knew what they had to do.

Tale contacted Pei Wu, and Bobae went to find Browless.

The stagnant atmosphere began to fill with energy. Hyein looked at Leeha with a satisfied expression.

He knew who was responsible for this shift.
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Leeha, looking at Hyein, pointed at the crystal ball as if he had suddenly remembered something.

“Hey, Hyein. That crystal ball―”

“Yes. Do you need it? I tried to give it to Ram Hwajung, but she said she already had her own crystal ball.”

“Ah, of course, Ram Hwajung must have recorded it too.”

Why wasn’t she here?

She had probably already reported to Bahamut. When Hyein gave him the recording from her crystal ball, Leeha took it and stood up from his seat.

Just before contacting Blaugrunn and heading to Bahamut’s lair, he contacted one more person.

―Prea?

―Yes.

The white-eyed spiritualist spoke in a slightly low voice. Leeha could roughly guess the reason.

―You saw it, right? Tiamat.

―Yes, that… was really…

The Tiamat recreated by the dark spirits was excessively vivid, and Prea, who visualized it with enough imagination, was quite shocked.

However, Leeha couldn’t leave her alone.

―So, I need to ask you a favor. I need you to use the dark spirits one more time.

―To see what Bluebeard, Tiamat, and the chromatic dragons are up to, right?

―Yes. If possible, could you find out when they plan to launch their attack as well as what they are doing?

―I will try.

The defense line could only be maintained for two weeks at most. Figuring out the timing of the attack was the top priority. If they planned to launch their attack three weeks later, activating the defense line now would be pointless.


Prea quickly responded to Leeha’s words.

After hearing her confirmation, Leeha went to meet Blaugrunn.

* * *

“Tiamat… looked like this…”

Blaugrunn couldn’t take his eyes off the image.

Leeha, however, was more concerned with Bahamut’s expression than Blaugrunn’s.

Likely because he had already heard about it from Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht, Bahamut’s expression remained rather static.

“As large as the Lord may be, this… is…”

Tiamat possessed an imposing presence that surpassed even Bahamut. Blaugrunn couldn’t bring himself to say it out loud, but Leeha fully understood what he wanted to convey.

Bahamut simply wore a bitter smile.

‘I’ve only seen its true form through hallucination, but…’

Bahamut, with his radiant appearance, presented an unparalleled beauty comparable to the majesty of nature. His perfectly balanced wings and body, coupled with his enormous size, moved without disruption.

His quiet, serene existence alone exuded a certain sanctity.

But Tiamat?

Its form seemed to transcend the concept of a creature or an existence in this world. It was grotesque, constantly writhing and contorting itself.

Although size wasn’t always an indicator of power, Bahamut wasn’t even 20% the size of Tiamat.

Could this be the terror possessed by a cosmic entity?

Just revealing itself left a more powerful impression than Bahamut.

The video was still in progress, and the atmosphere was quite serious. Leeha felt that he had to make a remark to break the tension.

“At least it seems that Onyx has lost any reason to act up.”


“Huh? Why is that, Ha Leeha-nim?”

“Well… Tiamat is so overwhelming that even Blaugrunn is mesmerized. The breath shown in this video – I’m not even sure you can call it a breath – what’s coming out of the six mouths is that intense? Onyx wouldn’t dare to claim the throne of the Chromatic Dragons anymore.”

“T-that’s true. Even if Onyx tried, it looks like any one of Tiamat’s six heads could swallow him whole with just a single gulp.”

The elder of the Chromatic Dragons, Onyx, had departed to the new continent along with all the Chromatic Dragons of the Lope continent.

Currently, the complaint “We can’t conduct raids. Where did all the dragons go?” was running rampant due to the absence of the Chromatic Dragons.

Leeha and Bahamut had believed that Onyx did such a thing “to prove his strength.”

They had thought that since Tiamat was still incomplete, if Onyx could show he was strong enough to subdue Tiamat, it might be possible to prevent such events in the future.

“Exactly. No matter how greedy Onyx is – ha, challenging that creature is akin to a suicide mission… Sigh, though I don’t find much comfort in saying that.”

Leeha tried to smile, but it didn’t come.

Even if Onyx charged in, he would only become ‘a mouthful’ for Tiamat.

Then what about himself?

From now on, he and the users had to join forces to kill that thing?

“Still, isn’t it fortunate?”

“What?”

It was then that Bahamut, who had been listening to the not-so-funny jokes between Leeha and Blaugrunn, spoke up.

“If Tiamat were in a normal state… no one who recorded this video would still be alive.”

“You mean to say if Tiamat were in a normal state, no one would survive?”

At Leeha’s question, Bahamut nodded.

It wasn’t an unreasonable statement. In reality, the Chromatic Dragons had only started to counterattack, and Tiamat merely breathed once.

The fortress that was ‘brushed’ by that breath collapsed nearly completely but wasn’t utterly obliterated.


It was just spewed out randomly from the writhing six mouths.

Moreover, after that, there were no attacks that could be called proper attacks.

‘Is it really that strong?’

Ram Hwajung, with added magic on top of the breath of two Red Dragons, could withstand for a significant amount of time.

In his ‘Dinosaurization’ state, Kijung had become strong enough to bat away most dragon magic.

Other users also had their own hidden skills.

Adding all those wouldn’t make it impossible, but…

Bahamut, as if knowing what Leeha was thinking, spoke.

“That thrashing is her agony. I sensed that she was incomplete because of her suffering. She wants to rampage freely but cannot. My, what a strange thing.”

Bahamut stared at the video intently. Leeha thought as he listened to him.

“Why is she suffering?”

“I don’t know. Maybe her pain is what makes her incomplete, or maybe being born incomplete causes that pain. But one thing is certain.”

Bahamut turned his head from the video to Leeha.

Leeha had a hunch about what Bahamut was going to say.

“That… is her weakness.”

“Exactly. Sending her back to her rest is only possible through her weakness. Of course… I, too, will have to step up.”

Bahamut seemed determined.

Listening to his words, Blaugrunn jumped up.

“L-Lord! No, you can’t. Your old wounds have not healed yet! And if you move, what about Bluebeard?! The entrance to Peklo City will be fully exposed―”

“Isn’t there Zelreja, Blaugrunn? Le also wouldn’t forsake Tiamat… Perhaps my stepping in to deal with Tiamat is the only way to tie Le to the continent across the sea. If Le and Ghibrid do not step in directly, Zelreja and Curpqque should be able to handle it.”

Leeha had heard that one of the dragons who blocked Bluebeard’s path to Peklo City was Curpqque, the Ancient Copper Dragon.

The master of debuffs, the Copper Dragon, and the Steel Dragon, who exhibited strength above the level of an Ancient-class in close combat.

If those two were holding the line, certainly not many could break through, except Bluebeard or Ghibrid.

“And Blaugrunn, don’t you think you will have achieved your wish by then?”

“What?”

“You too will gain enough strength from the battle with the Chromatic Dragons.”

“Exactly! I will stake my life to protect the Lord.”

“Ha, my life is in your hands! Hahaha!”

Bahamut laughed heartily while looking at Blaugrunn.

Leeha also displayed an awkward smile, trying to forcibly dispel his current anxiety.

‘It’s not impossible.’

All the Chromatic Dragons were already on the New Continent.

It was certain that Onyx would not be able to rebel against Tiamat, and thus, they would come with their full power. Naturally, it was the job of the Metal Dragons to block them.

A battle between the Metal Dragons and the Chromatic Dragons.

Leeha suddenly felt an uneasy feeling, like a shrimp caught between two fighting whales.

However, there were times when one had to move, even if it meant getting hurt.

“Then… Ha Leeha.”

“Yes, lord.”

“Can you predict when Tiamat and the others will start moving?”

“I am trying.”

“Hmm. In the meantime, we are holding off Peklo City. When they move… contact us immediately.”

Leeha nodded his head.

What Leeha had learned from meeting Bahamut was one, that Tiamat’s incompleteness and 〈Suffering〉 were related, and that they needed to find something to exploit that.

The other was the rough direction of the battle and the growth Blaugrunn would gain after the fight.

Bahamut had given an even more blatant hint than before.

How would Blaugrunn turn out after this battle? Of course, the most important point was to ‘survive’.

‘A battle where Bahamut himself called it a desperate fight… will take place.’

Survival was the key.

Tiamat’s resurrection would present a completely different battle scenario compared to when the Demon King’s Fragment had awoken.

Leeha felt it instinctively.

The closest comparison would be the complete resurrection of Tonn during the subjugation of the Demon’s den.

‘There will be tremendous sacrifices, right?’

Sacrifices had to be prepared. The problem was whether they could achieve victory after such sacrifices.

If it was all sacrifice and then defeat, it would be the end.

“Haha… this is interesting.”

“What? Ha Leeha? What is?”

“Even at this moment, seeing this scene, there must be someone out there who is nervous.”

“Who? Me?”

Leeha looked up at the empty ceiling of Bahamut’s lair.

What was the GM thinking?

“Phew… Okay. We don’t have much time anyway. Let’s start preparing right away.”

“Preparing?”

“Yes. If we want to give Tiamat a proper blow… we can’t do it at our current level. Then let’s get going, Bahamut!”

Leeha grabbed the crystal ball.

Blaugrunn, not knowing the reason, held tightly onto the hem of Leeha’s shirt.

Bahamut waved his hand, watching Leeha.

The place where his missing arm should have been, his clothes fluttered.

* * *

While Leeha and the members of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 were finishing their defense line and moving frantically to prepare for Tiamat’s invasion, a strange confrontation was continuing beyond the central part of the New Continent.

“… I saw the video, but I never imagined it. Why?”

Faust furrowed his eyebrows.

The white scales of the Lizardia glistened.

The target Faust was glaring at simply looked at him with eyes full of curiosity, seemingly unaware of his discomfort.

“Wow~ What’s going on here? Faust, why did you turn white again? Where did that—awesome leopard pattern from before go? What was it called—Deathbringer! Is that job over? Job cancellation? Is that even possible? What about your achievements or increased stats? Skills?”

“… Answer my questions, Lark. And—Dame Shin Nara of the Sacred Knights.”

Faust pointed at the two with a bone wand.
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Shin Nara flinched briefly, but Lark’s expression remained unchanged.

He shrugged his shoulders as if to ask how this happened and looked to the side of Faust.

“Ah, Faust. There’s no need to attack. They’re on our side.”

Bluebeard raised Lark’s hand.

Faust glanced at Le for a moment before refocusing on Lark.

“That can’t be right, count. You don’t know what kind of person Lark is. I don’t care what he said to you while I was logged out, but you shouldn’t trust him.”

“I swear, I always get cast as the villain. Didn’t you hear the news, Faust? You couldn’t have been asleep through all of this. Am I wrong?”

Faust’s jagged teeth were more exposed at Lark’s words.

Lark was right. The sudden commotion caused by Tiamat had occurred while Faust was logged out.

He had hurriedly logged in after seeing the news and videos online.

“The idea that you suddenly come under the Count’s command just because you were with the Chromatic Dragons is nonsensical. The Virtue Knights and Sacred Knights are top-grade players on the Lope continent. It’s even more unbelievable for a ranker like Shin Nara. And, you’re all related to Ha Leeha, aren’t you?”

Faust subtly glanced at Le.

At the mention of Ha Leeha, Bluebeard’s eyebrows twitched.

Shin Nara also glared at Faust with hostility, but Lark took two steps forward, naturally blocking their line of sight.

“Firstly, let me point out that we did not come under the ‘command’ of the esteemed Bluebeard and his servant, Faust.”

“What? Then why did the Count accept you into his fold? The Count couldn’t have been swayed by your silver tongue―”

“Enough, lizardia. I was the one who made a deal with Le.”

Rustle… rustle… Amid the tension between Faust and Lark, someone emerged from the bushes.

Despite the slow sound of their footsteps, they moved quickly as if on a moving walkway, without any visible steps.


The figure spoke to Faust.

“Are you suggesting that I was swayed by this human’s tongue?”

“Who are you―”

The old man with disheveled black hair glared menacingly.

As he raised his cane to point at Faust, a hat suddenly flew between them.

Capturing everyone’s attention like a boomerang, the hat landed atop Le’s head.

“Let it go, Onyx. He speaks like that out of his strong loyalty to me. And, frankly, I’m quite interested in what our Faust has to say.”

Bluebeard, Faust, Onyx, and Lark stood in opposition to each other.

* * *

“I’m not foolish, Lark. You’ve had plenty of favors from the ‘Divine Staff’. And from that female knight as well.”

“Are you refusing to cooperate, Le?”

As Le straightened his posture and took a seat, Onyx glared at him. Despite the perceptive stare of the elderly Black Dragon, Le did not flinch.

“No, no. I’m not speaking to you, Onyx. I’m just… a bit intrigued by those related to Ha Leeha. And most importantly, you are necessary to utilize Tiamat perfectly. So why would I refuse cooperation?”

“Utilize?”

“Ah! I see, ‘utilize’ might sound unpleasant. I meant ‘to operate fully’.”

Bluebeard shrugged his shoulders as Onyx glared.

Faust could comprehend the current situation from just a brief conversation. The only reason the Chromatic Dragons came to Bluebeard was one thing.

“Tiamat… that ‘thing’ from the video.”

The last thing Faust saw before logging out was Tiamat in human form.

Although the lack of focus in its eyes was peculiar, he never imagined that the small girl, Tiamat, would transform ‘that’ way.


“Black Dragon. Onyx. I’ve heard of you. And you… you intend to make Tiamat fully―”

『”You ill-mannered lizard! How dare you call the Queen’s name so recklessly!”』

“―Kkeuut!? 〈Bone Shield〉!”

As soon as Faust called out Tiamat’s name, Onyx reverted to his dragon form.

Even when he was an old man with black hair, the aura of the Black Dragon was not to be underestimated. When Onyx revealed his true form, Faust used his skills instinctively.

『”How dare you, a mere lesser being, treat the Queen like an inferior! You couldn’t even reach the dust on her feet, let alone my own worthless toes!”』

Onyx lashed out at Faust, but his outburst wasn’t solely directed at him.

Onyx’s target was Bluebeard.

Bluebeard took off his hat and looked up.

Nodding lightly to Onyx, who was floating in the air, he displayed his own form of respect.

“What’s the point of getting angry, Onyx? This one is still young and doesn’t know proper etiquette. If you consider it, Lark’s mistake towards me might have been greater.”

“That incident was when there were still differences in our standings, Bluebeard. Common sense dictates that if I had known we were allies, it wouldn’t have happened,”

Lark spoke quickly, gesturing with his hands.

Le stood up from his seat.

He didn’t hold his staff in reverse, nor did he assume any special attack stance, but with each step he took, Lark had to retreat.

“I heard from Chiyou back then. You clearly tried to ally with Chiyou. But then, for some reason, you attacked me. And now, suddenly you’ve brought the Chromatic Dragons? To serve Tiamat, the Queen of the Chromatic Dragons? How am I supposed to believe that? Why should I trust you―”

“He is a human who killed Black Dragons, even those of my race, Le.”

“Hm?”

Onyx had returned to his human form and stood beside Lark.

Bluebeard tilted his head, seemingly unable to understand, prompting Onyx to explain further.


“This person killed ten of our Chromatic Dragons. It wouldn’t be an exaggeration to say he’s our worst enemy.”

“And now you’re with him?”

“Yes.”

The protective instinct among dragon races was immensely strong.

Every NPC, as well as users, were well aware of this fact.

“Don’t you understand the reason I accepted someone that should be torn apart?”

Faust looked alternately at Lark and Shin Nara with astonished eyes.

‘No way… How could that be? Once intimacy drops to a negative level, it’s almost impossible to recover.’

Killing an Adult Black Dragon would have reduced Lark’s intimacy with Onyx to -100%.

Meeting Onyx in such a situation and persuading him to accept him? Could such a thing even be possible?

For Faust, it was something that he couldn’t even imagine.

“As I promised to accept him… With him willing to aid in the revival of the Chromatic Dragons, no one in our clan opposed him. In fact, the very reason we are here is thanks to Lark’s power. And you still wouldn’t trust him?”

Onyx was speaking on behalf of Lark.

Lark nodded, saying, “Exactly, exactly”, while only Shin Nara continued to show an uncomfortable expression.

“Then we’ll trust him. How could we not? However… how do you plan to help? Despite Tiamat showing a stable state since you arrived, she was uncontrollable in her original form.”

“We have only just met the Queen. But we have a way to reduce the Queen’s pain.”

“Do you really?”

“Yes, by understanding the source of the Queen’s suffering and sharing that burden ourselves.”

Onyx spoke confidently. Le nodded, saying “Amazing.”

“Sharing pain. Only possible among the same species, huh?”

Neither Lark, Faust, nor Shin Nara, who were unaware of the exact reason for Tiamat’s instability, finally understood the pain that was making Tiamat incomplete.

‘Sharing pain? Is it similar to the act of sharing blood among vampires?’

Faust licked his lips, pondering Onyx’s words.

Middle Earth, where the exchange of mana and blood was possible.

Faust understood that if such a high-level race as a dragon existed, particularly a unique entity like Tiamat, it implied the possibility of sharing negative energy or bestowing power through acts of worship.

Without Onyx having to respond, Bluebeard interpreted his silence as agreement and said, “So, it’s possible to kill Bahamut as well.”

“Indeed. The human-side information will be provided by Lark here, and we will strike at the most opportune moment…”

Only then did Onyx nod in agreement. Pausing in his speech, he looked at Lark, who smiled gently and bowed slightly. Onyx’s lips also curled upward.

“With the complete queen at our side, we shall slay Bahamut.”

However, his eyes did not smile along with his mouth. Onyx’s smile, devoid of any genuine mirth, solemnly declared their intention. Bluebeard ceased his harassment of Lark.

“Good, good. That’s what I wanted anyway.”

With a satisfied expression, Bluebeard nodded and sat back down on the rock. The atmosphere had been completely settled.

Faust still did not like Lark, but he could not voice his disagreement since the Chromatic Dragon had spoken.

‘The Chromatic Dragon controls Tiamat—once they receive Tiamat, they use it to kill Bahamut. That’s the plan.’

Moreover, didn’t his ‘superior’, Bluebeard, already accept them?

The downfall of Bahamut and the Metal Dragons was something Faust had longed for. It had become increasingly difficult to obtain a dragon’s corpse by his own means.

Thinking about this made Faust feel unpleasant again.

“Hey, Faust-ssi.”

“Stay away, Lark.”

Lark approached Faust quietly. Faust took a step back, but Lark, with his sly smile, edged closer again.

“Hehe, let’s not bicker among Minis members. What’s the point of fighting? We both stand to gain. Don’t you think so?”

“Members? That’s laughable. What’s Ha Leeha’s plan?”

“I don’t know either. I haven’t contacted Ha Leeha in a long time. People seem to think Shin Nara is here, but do you think I could’ve caught a Chromatic Dragon alone? Shin Nara and I did it together, right? That’s why Onyx accepted us.”

Lark pointed to Shin Nara, who was still off in the distance. Faust’s eyes briefly glanced over at her. He found it hard to believe, having known the Shin Nara-Ha Leeha duo long before Lark.

“Shin Nara betrayed Ha Leeha? Does that even make sense?”

Even before Faust finished speaking, Lark’s eyes gleamed.

“Betrayed? They were never a couple, were they? Isn’t that how things are in Middle Earth anyway? Right, Faust-ssi, what about Chiyou? You were always with Igor and Pyro. Where are they now?”

Lark’s specialty was leading conversations to cast doubt on the listener and entrap them in his narrative. Equating Shin Nara and Ha Leeha’s relationship with Chiyou and Faust’s, implying Faust’s current separation from Chiyou, demonstrated the peak of his rhetoric skill.

“I can’t say.”

“Exactly. You don’t have to say it to know. Judging by your pale skin, Chiyou did something, didn’t she? And Bluebeard told you not to worry about her, didn’t he? So, she’s probably completely out of the picture. Right?”

As Faust fell silent and glared at him, Lark gave a foolish grin and nodded significantly.

“Let’s work well together in the future. We have no one else to rely on. Even Bluebeard said as much. Rather than trust, let’s…”

And with that, he extended his hand.

“As business partners, let’s collaborate well.”

Faust wasn’t a fool either.

He was 100% sure that Lark and Shin Nara wouldn’t behave like this suddenly. Thus, he had no choice but to go along with their words.

Their proposal wasn’t about abstract trust or ambiguous claims; it was about working together until they achieved their respective goals.

Faust couldn’t resist the dazzling rhetoric that had enchanted the king of Minis, the Minister of Finance, and numerous other top-grade NPCs.
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The white-scaled Lizardia extended his hand.

“Alright, I’ll do it.”

“Do it? Hmm, you don’t really have to like it.”

“I said, alright! I’ll do it! Two syllables!”

“Hehe, just kidding, just kidding!”

Lark’s skillful manipulation of the mood cast away any suspicion Faust had.

The chromatic dragons, led by Onyx, escorted Tiamat. It was here where the only user affiliated with the Demon King’s army, Faust, me Lark and Shin Nara.

The dense forest deepened the night.

From somewhere in that darkness, the sound of eerie laughter spread.

The spirits of the dark conveyed all information to Prea — everything they saw and heard.

Prea relayed everything to Leeha without missing a detail.

“… Is it really true? Lark—”

“‘Let’s do well as business partners~’ His tone was unmistakable. Why? Don’t you believe me?”

Prea’s eyebrows playfully lifted.

Listening to her teasing tone, Leeha immediately shook his head.

“No, I believe everything you’ve conveyed, Prea.”

At this point, there was no reason for Prea to lie. Hence, there was only one answer.

Leeha sighed lightly and said, “Lark has allied with Onyx… and Bluebeard to kill Bahamut.”

* * *


“Oh my, but you don’t seem too concerned?”

Prea stared at Leeha’s face. Seeing her eyes without pupils, Leeha smiled lightly.

“Well, let’s say it was somewhat expected.”

“Expected? You expected Lark to betray? No way! Not even Chiyou could have predicted that!”

Though she responded in surprise, Leeha said nothing more.

After watching the visions of Bahamut and Tiamat together, Leeha had many thoughts.

The contemplation on how to kill Tiamat always led to speculation about the true intentions of Lark and Shin Nara.

Leeha had come to a conclusion about that.

Lark had joined hands with the Demon King’s forces.

‘He did the same when he joined Chiyou during the New Continent’s early days… definitely the same back then.’

When Leeha completely regarded Lark as an enemy and confronted him. When the rivalry between the Old Continent and the New Continent began, Lark had acted that way.

But what had been the outcome?

Leeha remembered Lark’s actions in front of 〈Divine Staff〉.

‘He fought Bluebeard. And with his entire might…’

Even though Leeha thought Lark had sided with Chiyou, Lark confronted Bluebeard. In fact, he moved faster than Leeha and Kijung, who had caught Bluebeard’s movements.

Back then, if Lark and the Virtue Knights hadn’t held Bluebeard back?

The 〈Divine Staff〉 would have been destroyed by the time Leeha arrived.

How had Lark managed that?

Back then, Leeha hadn’t thought it through, but now it seemed quite simple.

‘He had joined hands with the Demon King’s forces. Even sharing a tiny, tiny bit of information… He’s the type who wouldn’t even let a crumb of information slip.’


Lark was known for his sharp intellect and cunning.

Ram Hwayeon, Chiyou, and Lark – these three might as well be the top contenders in all of Middle Earth.

After defeating Le and forming a pact with the Holy Spirit, Lark had said something.

Leeha had been reminiscing about that not long ago.

‘He didn’t side with the Demon King’s forces. 〈He was just a business partner〉. Hehe.’

Leeha thought of Lark.

What could he be thinking? Did he have to go this far, even blocking whispers?

Had Leeha not vehemently opposed it, Petyr would have informed Minis of Lark’s current situation.

The Virtue Knights’ betrayal would have directly tarnished the reputation of the Minis Kingdom, resulting in an astronomical bounty.

Could Lark have been unaware of that?

‘No matter how meticulously one acts, they must have known that their tracks would eventually be discovered. Despite that, they went ahead…’

He had to have believed that someone understood their plan and would prevent things from faltering.

And in this situation, the only ‘someone’ that Leeha could think of was himself.

Therefore, Leeha also had to push forward.

Even though they couldn’t communicate verbally, the clear understanding of their mutual objectives was enough to base the plan on—and help each other accordingly.

“Ha Leeha? Predicting Lark’s betrayal―”

“Hmm, let’s just go with that for now. But isn’t it strange that Prea-ssi is smiling so brightly despite bringing such news?”

Prea interrupted Leeha’s train of thought.

Leeha shook his head briefly to clear his mind and looked at her. The white-eyed priestess smiled bashfully at his question.

“Of course it’s good news. Although it’s not something I pay much attention to, something ‘nice to have’ happened.”


“Oh! What is it?”

“Le-nk-ing. Up.”

“Le― oh? Ranking? Did your ranking go up?”

Leeha was genuinely surprised.

Could it be that the rankings, which had been stagnant for a while, had finally moved? Prea spread her hands wide and folded one thumb.

Revealing her current ranking of ninth.

This meant Prea, who was ranked tenth, rose to ninth place, while Faust, who was ninth, dropped to tenth.

“How― Ah! You said Faust reverted to a White Scale again, right? With his second job canceled, something must have happened―”

“But if he’s not dead, his level wouldn’t have decreased, would it?”

“… Then what?”

“Ah, sometimes it’s good to be talked about, but it seems this time it had little impact. Well, it couldn’t be helped.”

“Impact― Ah!?”

Prea’s rise from tenth to ninth place in the rankings unfortunately didn’t become much of a buzz.

It was a natural outcome.

The appearance of Tiamat was that impactful.

The fact that the rankings changed after Tiamat appeared implied that something significant had occurred during that time.

“When I leveled up while leaving the Spirit Realm…”

“Yes! Hehe, it turns out the ranking change happened then. Checking rankings is such a hassle unless it’s through the official website.”

“Wow, congratulations! Really, that’s great news.”

Even while delivering grim tidings, Prea’s bright expression now made sense.

Upon receiving Leeha’s sincere congratulations, Prea grinned and nodded slightly in gratitude.

Leeha was momentarily puzzled, but he soon understood her intention.

“Thanks to the ranking increase, I look forward to your continued support.”

Prea attributed her level-up to Leeha. Since he was instrumental in allowing access to the Spirit Realm, home to the Spirits of Fury, destruction, chaos, and Power, her acknowledgment wasn’t misplaced. However, Leeha was surprised she admitted it and thanked him first.

Leeha smiled and responded.

“Likewise.”

Since revealing his true intentions last time, Leeha’s efforts to forge an honest relationship with her were gradually showing results.

And if they were to become complete allies?

“Oh, by the way, Prea-ssi.”

“Yes?”

“About the dark attribute spirits.”

“Oh! Ah, yes, yes! Those guys are really something! Beyond imagination! Ha Leeha-ssi, you should see them.”

Prea’s tone turned overly enthusiastic, akin to a mother boasting about her child, and Leeha’s eyes twinkled.

Since she seemed eager to share, it was a good opportunity.

“Then I should take a look.”

“Yes?”

“Haha, what are the abilities of those spirits?”

For now, Prea was merely a spy gathering information on the Demon King’s army. But when the battle with Tiamat officially began?

Leeha might need Prea’s power.

Understanding the strengths of one’s allies was crucial for crafting effective strategies.

Prea seemed to understand Leeha’s intention and wagged her index finger playfully.

“It can’t just be shown.”

“Hey? Last time you clearly said—”

“Oh, I’m not trying to hide it.”

“Then what do you mean?”

Leeha finally realized the hidden intent behind Prea’s seemingly contradictory words.

“Uh… no way…”

“Hehe, the fastest way is for you to experience it yourself, Ha Leeha-ssi! Come out, guys!”

If you wanted to know about spirits, the solution was to get attacked by them.

Following Prea’s simple yet effective approach, spirits of rage, destruction, chaos, and power soon appeared by her side.

“Wait a minute! It’s not just about attacking me—couldn’t you explain the skill sets and stuff step by step—”

“Just attack him enough so he doesn’t die!”

“Arghhhhh!?”

The dark attribute spirits, whose names Leeha didn’t even know yet, immediately launched an attack at him.

『Myo, myooooong!』

As Jellypong tried to defend instantly, a different thought came to Leeha’s mind.

“Prea-ssi!”

Jellypong executed a three-dimensional maneuver.

In a blink, the distance between Prea and Leeha widened. Despite Prea shouting at him, Leeha was smiling.

“Don’t just dodge; you need to get hit to understand the effect!”

“Exactly! You need to use them to know their effect, right? And you said spirits don’t die but return to the spirit realm?”

“… Yes?”

Prea couldn’t comprehend what Leeha was aiming for. However, she saw one thing clearly.

Click.

He swiftly combined a magazine, taking it out with deft movements!

“No way! Ha Leeha-ssi!?”

“I have something to test too! Please communicate with the spirits! Now, I challenge you to a duel! There’s no death penalty or chaotic penalty, so you can relax, right?”

Leeha shouted as he loaded his gun.

The metal clinked merrily, and Black Bass began to laugh.

―Kuhuhu… can I taste the spirits?―

“Well, it’s just a taste test. And to test some skills.”

Just like Prea had contracted dark attribute spirits with dark attribute Spirit Kings, Leeha too had acquired new skills from them.

Skills like ‘Forbidden Rage’ that increased attack constantly were used passively, but how about the other skills?

‘Single Destruction’, ‘Reservoir Dogs’, and ‘Burn Out’!

He had read the descriptions but hadn’t yet used them in real battle.

Would the skills devour spirits of the same attribute? What effect would they have on spirits of different attributes?

“Let’s test it! ‘Single Destruction’!”

“Wait! Even if the spirits don’t die, if the health is drained in their summoned state, I’m in trouble—Kyaaa! Accept! Accept!”

Seeing Leeha aiming at her without changing his expression tilted Prea’s decision toward accepting the duel promptly.

It was better to be defeated within the rules of the Middle Earth system rather than being killed randomly.

Boom────────!

In that moment, Leeha pulled the trigger.

* * *

On the fourth day since Tiamat awoke,

There hadn’t been significant movements observed from the chromatic dragons or the Demon King’s forces.

It was a tremendous relief for the users.

“Phew, hello!”

Kijung greeted energetically, but nearly no response came.

In the newly established provisional command center near the half-collapsed fortress, numerous individuals were busy checking things, resembling a busy office.

As Kijung walked confidently, a blue-haired girl blocked his path.
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“Master Kay.”

“Ram Hwajung-ssi, hehe. How’s the skill upgrade going?”

“Secret.”

Ram Hwajung glanced at Kijung before quickly turning her head and heading inside the office. She carefully opened the door to a separate room, and Kijung followed her inside.

“Ram Hwayeon-ssi!”

It was Ram Hwayeon’s private office.

Kijung greeted quietly but firmly, but Ram Hwayeon did not even look at him.

From the Hwahong Guild members, who came to report to her only to get scolded, to the Ramrung Group staff and the secretaries who simply assisted her with her schedule—everyone was there, making the private office busier than the outside area, which Kijung fully understood.

In some ways, it was rather satisfactory.

“As expected, it’s amazing. Well, you have to be at this level to properly control Leeha-hyung—”

“Ma───ster───Kay!”

Ram Hwayeon, who hadn’t even glanced at Kijung, dashed towards him like lightning, interrupting his words.

Her sudden charge made Kijung instinctively raise his shield.

“Huh, huh, how can a mage class be so fast? I thought your agility stats were maxed out.”

“Sh-shut up! And th-that… what nonsense are you talking about!? Don’t you know you shouldn’t say that in front of people!?”

Ram Hwayeon didn’t bother asking Kijung how he knew the secret. She knew it had to be Leeha who told him.

Seeing her stutter in embarrassment, Kijung felt both surprised and mischievous.

“Hehe… that matter? What are you talking about?”

“What do you mean, what matter! Of course, th-that… that one!”


“What could it be? I really don’t know. Oh! Is it something related to Leeha-hyung?”

“Firstly—ehm—everyone! Everyone, leave now! I’ll hear the report later, clear my schedule for about 15 minutes, and you, secretaries, go out too.”

“Yes, guild master!”

As Kijung grinned mischievously, Ram Hwayeon quickly ushered out the staff.

The employees, grateful to be released from her nagging, silently thanked Kijung.

As soon as the door closed, Ram Hwayeon collected herself.

Not to calm her emotions, but to address the issue at hand.

“Really! You and your hyung are just alike! Do you think it’s fun to tease people with this kind of thing? Even though I indeed started d-d-dating Ha Leeha, we have to keep it a secret within the group, not to mention, it’s not good if the Chairman hears about it yet! Can’t you understand how dangerous it is to joke about this here?”

A storm of scolding rained down on Kijung.

Despite being reprimanded, Kijung couldn’t help but smile.

Seeing Ram Hwayeon with flushed cheeks making up excuses—how endearing!

“Somehow, I feel proud. My hyung is awesome.”

“What? Are you listening to me?”

“Yes? Ah! Of course, I’m listening. Absolutely.”

When Kijung exaggeratedly nodded, Ram Hwayeon sighed. Ram Hwajung pointed at Kijung and said, “Just alike.”

After the ruckus subsided, Ram Hwayeon turned to Kijung again.

“So, what’s the reason you’re here?”

“Sorry that your boyfriend couldn’t come and I had to show up. Hehehe—”

“Ah, seriously, stop! That’s enough.”

Kijung tried to tease her again by mentioning Leeha, but Ram Hwayeon cut him off this time.


Kijung, who intended to tease her once more, couldn’t attempt it further. The embarrassed and bumbling girl from moments ago had disappeared.

As her title Flame Mage suggested, flames seemed to burn in her eyes.

“Ahem. Yes, understood.”

Kijung knew continuing to tease her wouldn’t end well.

What if Ram Hwayeon actually became ‘the future sister-in-law’?

“Who knows what misfortune that might bring later? Sigh, in any case, Leeha-hyung must be having a tough time.”

Not to mention her stunning appearance and impressive background, dealing with the troubles arising from Ram Hwayeon’s exceptional abilities seemed an enormous task.

It was natural for Kijung, who had witnessed Ram Hwayeon’s true self after a long time, to worry about how she managed her subordinates and interacted with people, being renowned for her exceptional interpersonal skills.

“So, why are you here? The promotion and recruitment of current users are proceeding smoothly. What does the ‘Sacred Alliance’ have to say?”

Ram Hwayeon quickly got to the main point.

“Ah, no. The direction is flowing positively. General Ewin has decided to actively request assistance from various countries in the Lope continent as well… We will get a response soon on how to handle the military command and operational control of the ‘Sacred Alliance’ in case of an emergency.”

“Really? You could have told me that in a whisper.”

“Oh, come on! I was just joking. Do you really have to push me away like that?”

When Ram Hwayeon spoke coldly, Kijung clutched his chest and pretended to act hurt.

Ram Hwayeon felt a sudden pang of embarrassment and snorted.

She felt ashamed for speaking so sharply, and Kijung’s actions reminded her of Ha Leeha.

“Ahem! It’s not exactly like that. I was just a bit sensitive since I was busy.”

Kijung smiled again as he listened to Ram Hwayeon. His reason for coming here today was to relieve some of Ram Hwayeon’s workload.

Kijung took out a bundle of scrolls from his bag and placed it on the table.

“What is this?”


“Skill scrolls.”

“Is this an investment from Byulcho? We are already stockpiling alarm skills and teleport detection skill scrolls. More is always better, but—”

“No. No, it’s not that. Heh, this is something you can’t find anywhere else.”

While Ram Hwayeon tilted her head in curiosity, Ram Hwajung rushed over to the table and picked up a few scrolls to check for herself.

“Ah.”

“What is it, Hwajung?”

“The blindfold. Woman.”

Ram Hwajung instantly recognized whose skill was recorded on the scroll.

Upon hearing Ram Hwajung’s two-word synopsis, Ram Hwayeon also grasped Kijung’s intent.

“Rubini!”

Oracle Rubini. Due to her physical limitations, she had devised a way to help by recording her skills onto scrolls.

By simply tearing the scroll, the owner could activate the recorded skill, allowing them to utilize Rubini’s immense map skill to detect enemy movements even in her absence.

What surprised Ram Hwayeon was not the efficacy of the scroll.

“She made these… for you? Did Rubini make these for you, Master Kay?”

It was because of the severe drawbacks that skill scrolls had.

The reason only commonly used magic had scrolls was not just their simple production process.

Skill scrolls disclosed all information about the creator, including the creator’s nickname, skill details, cooldown time, duration, and MP consumption.

The more information disclosed, the easier it was for other users to figure out its source, so high-level users rarely made scrolls.

In Middle Earth, where skills were assets, it was natural for those with rare skills to keep their cards close to their chest.

“Yes. Well… it wasn’t entirely because of me… but she did give them. Saying it would be necessary.”

“‘Not because of you’…?”

Ram Hwayeon’s intuition kicked in.

Before Kijung could respond, she spoke again.

“Then who is it? For someone like Rubini, who remained hidden during the National War, to make skill scrolls now? During the Pyrot-Cocri incident it was understandable because Raphaela was with her, but this is a different situation, isn’t it?”

Her sharp mind had already pieced it all together.

“Well, uh—that’s….”

“Who is it? Tell me.”

Ram Hwayeon was all smiles.

Inside her crescent-moon-like eyes, Kijung saw a demon.

―Hyung! Hyung!

―Oh, Kijung! Hey! I just had a bout with Prea and stretched a bit. The skills I got are incredible―

―This is no time for that! My situation just got really complicated! Come here quickly!

―Where are you? Oh, the temporary fortress? Got it.

All he could do was hastily send an SOS.

“Master Kay?”

“Oh, Leeha-hyung is on his way?”

“Ha Leeha?”

“Yes! Uh… and I trust you to distribute the scrolls to the Paleos making the defense line! I’m going now!”

“Wait! At least explain why Rubini made these―”

To be precise, Kijung had summoned Ha Leeha not as an SOS call, but to pass the responsibility onto someone else at that moment.

As Ram Hwayeon strode towards Kijung, Ram Hwajung quickly looked up at the office door.

“Oh, oppa.”

Ram Hwayeon’s enhanced perception, almost a superpower, quickly detected Ha Leeha, shifting her attention from Kijung to him.

“Ha Leeha―You came?”

Without waiting, Ram Hwajung opened the door and dashed outside. Kijung, who was nervously watching Ram Hwayeon, took out his crystal ball and spoke.

“Then, I’ll be off! I’ll inform you if there’s any unusual activity from chimeras or manticores. Goodbye!”

“Oops, master―”

Whoosh!

Kijung teleported back to the center of the new continent.

He rejoined Biyemi, Jin Gonggong, Tale, and Hyein, who had already secured the location, practically making it the open base of the Separate Dimension.

In the place where his cousin had disappeared, Leeha entered with an awkward gait, opening the door.

“Uh― Um, ram, Hwayeon~ Ssi~?”

What was more awkward than his walk was the way he addressed Ram Hwayeon.

Should he call her Ram Hwayeon? Hwayeon? Ram Hwayeon-ssi? Or “darling”?!

“Ha, ahem, Ha Leeha― Ah~?”

Should she call him Leeha? Ha Leeha? Ha Leeha-ssi? Or “oppa”?!

It remained an awkward way of speaking, neither fully informal nor completely formal.

Their first awkward moment alone since becoming a couple!

“Hmph.”

To be precise, it was simply an awkward moment under the watchful eyes of Ram Hwajung, who was trying hard to stifle her laughter, but the couple couldn’t even notice her presence.

Avoiding each other’s gaze, they looked down at their feet or ran their hands over the surface of the table.

Leeha’s hand accidentally brushed against a bundle of scrolls.

“Ahem, this―what’s this? Some scrolls? I heard you’ve been busy lately―”

“Yes, scrolls.”

“Um, what?”

Leeha suddenly sensed the change in atmosphere.

Ram Hwayeon’s expression shifted unexpectedly.

“What is with those?”

Despite being thrilled to see Leeha, her excitement was overshadowed by Kijung’s words.

“What, what?”

“What’s your relationship with Rubini? Was it not just Shin Nara?”

“Oh, oh? Wh-what do you mean?”

TL’s Corner:

Honestly, Rubini and Leeha’s skill synergy is cheat-like.
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When they first met as a couple, they immediately began acting like one.

“Who else is there?!”

Their first meeting, filled with misunderstandings and quarrels, didn’t change just because they had become lovers.

Leeha had to endure Ram Hwayeon’s attacks without knowing the reason.

– Hey, Kijung! What’s going on, man! Why the sudden— What did you just say and leave!

– Hyung… fighting.

– You brat! What’s with the ‘fighting’— Ow! I’ve been hit!

– Ah, the weather is nice. Middle Earth usually has good weather, though.

Kijung muttered into Leeha’s ear, masking his words.

“Keke. Just understand that this peace is not necessarily a good sign, guild master.”

Biyemi spoke as he stretched and looked toward the eastern part of the New Continent.

“Y-yes, I know that too. I was just saying. Hehe.”

What were the Chromatic Dragon and Tiamat preparing that they were stalling so long?

They had no choice but to prepare as best they could, writing scenarios based on various assumptions.

It was 20 minutes later when Leeha finally managed to calm down Ram Hwayeon.

* * *

“You really don’t know, do you?”

“Y-yes, I really don’t know!”

The situation settling down meant that the hitting had stopped, but Ram Hwayeon still glared daggers at Leeha.

He had barely managed to find out that this was a misunderstanding from the scroll that recorded Rubini’s skills after being repeatedly struck on the shoulder with the scroll.

“I don’t even remember the last time I talked to Rubini. She wouldn’t have given it because of me. Maybe we talked during the New Continent voyage? Ram Hwayeon, you know this too.”


“Th-that’s true. Ha— Ahem, and I also know you’re not the kind of person who’s skilled at things like this.”

How much time had passed before she accepted his feelings?

Ram Hwayeon had subtly let her feelings for Leeha show, so much so that Kijung had noticed everything.

It was just recently that Leeha fully realized it.

‘Unless Rubini confesses outright, no, even if she confesses outright, this guy would just think it’s a joke.’

Her expressions for referring to Leeha naturally softened over time.

Once her anger subsided, Ram Hwayeon’s eyes saw Leeha in a different light.

“Hehe, yes! Although calling you unskilled feels a bit off, at least the misunderstanding is cleared?”

How could that laughing face look so charming?

‘Or rather, is it natural for it to look charming?’

After all, he is her boyfriend.

Ram Hwayeon’s shoulders momentarily lifted with pride.

To the outside world, she was known as a fierce woman, handling all kinds of business transactions with fiery passion, managing vast sums that ordinary people couldn’t even imagine. But she was still in her 20s.

Her perfectionist nature, the early noble education from the Ram Long Group, and the survival of the fittest among siblings had made her who she was today, but even such a person couldn’t suppress the primal stirrings of emotion.

“So, what have you been up to so far?”

“Ah! Hehe, I almost forgot. Recently, I got something interesting. I was testing it out.”

“Something interesting? An item? A skill?”

At Ram Hwayeon’s questions, Leeha nodded.

Until Kijung contacted him, he had been engaging in mock battles with Prea and testing his skills, and the results were very satisfying.

“What’s making you laugh so much? Ha, I haven’t seen you this satisfied in a long time.”


“Well, difficult things are indeed difficult, I must say. Even though P—”

Leeha clamped his mouth shut before he could say Prea’s name.

It was none other than Ram Hwayeon, who hadn’t even properly conversed with Rubini but was fussing about the fact that she had given him a skill scroll.

Would she take it lightly if she heard that he had done something with Prea ‘alone’?

Fortunately, Leeha was perceptive enough to avoid saying her name. He managed to swallow it with some effort, navigating the situation smoothly.

Ram Hwayeon, too, didn’t pry into such trivial details.

She felt strangely reassured just seeing Leeha’s satisfied smile.

“Are you saying you can deal with Tiamat?”

Did he find some method, she wondered?

Leeha’s smile faded at Ram Hwayeon’s cautious question.

“Hmm, if it works… if it only works, it will undoubtedly be quite powerful.”

Leeha was pondering seriously.

It wasn’t just his own skills. Prea’s spirits also needed to assist.

If both attacks could be carried out simultaneously, there was a chance that dealing with Tiamat might end surprisingly easily.

‘But… she’s the queen of the Chromatic Dragons. Even if Prea has outstanding abilities to make high and top-level contracts instantly, it wouldn’t be enough. Maybe if it’s a contract strong enough to summon spirit kings, but Prea’s spirits can’t exert 100% of their power.’

Even if it’s not 100%, as long as it’s 50%!

While harboring hopeful expectations, Leeha’s expression didn’t lighten. He had past experiences that proved similar.

‘The terror spirit didn’t work on Faust. Undead creatures have an innate resistance to fear… Naturally, it would be the same for Pyrot-Cocri. Certain NPCs and monsters above a specific level come with inherent abilities.’

So, what about Tiamat?

The queen of the Chromatic Dragons, who instilled cosmic fear just by looking at her—would the spirits of anger, destruction, chaos, and impotence be able to exert their power?


Leeha had not yet discussed this with Prea, but he negatively assessed this aspect.

One always had to consider the possibility that it wouldn’t work.

As Leeha fell momentarily into thought, Ram Hwayeon, who had been watching his face, asked.

“If it works? Are you worried the skill might not hit? That’s impossible.”

“Huh? Why is that impossible?”

Leeha blinked and asked.

Ram Hwayeon looked at Leeha with a rather bewildered expression.

“It’s impossible for Ha Leeha to miss a target! Anyone else, maybe, but not you.”

Before Leeha could say anything, Ram Hwayeon continued speaking without hesitation.

“Luger is impressive. Kidd’s reputation as an outsider is just as significant as Luger’s. But despite starting later, you’re already standing shoulder to shoulder with them. No, you’ve even surpassed them, right? Isn’t that so, Ha Leeha?”

“Le… really?”

Leeha nodded as if entranced, discovering for the first time what Ram Hwayeon truly thought of him.

“Absolutely. You almost assassinated the king of Fibiel. You’re accomplishing things no user in Middle Earth can. You’ve even met a GM, so what are you so scared of?”

Ram Hwayeon moved closer to Leeha. The sound of her heels clicking on the floor echoed hazily in Leeha’s ears.

Her red hair fluttered gently as she stood before him, looking him straight in the eyes.

“The boyfriend I know never misses a target he’s set. Did I get that wrong?”

Her face started to blush, similar to the color of her hair.

Putting all her courage into cheering for her boyfriend, Ram Hwayeon was relieved that this was just a game. Because if this were reality and not Middle Earth, Leeha would have heard her heart pounding out loud.

Leeha felt the same.

What was this overwhelming emotion bubbling up inside?

If this were reality and not Middle Earth, his eyes would have surely been hot and flushed.

“Say something, anything! After I barely managed to speak, and you’re just sitting there silently! How embarrassing― Ah!”

Leeha hugged Ram Hwayeon tightly.

He decided to put aside his embarrassment for the moment; right now, he just wanted to express his love for his girlfriend, who believed in and supported him even more than he believed in himself.

They held each other in silence, sharing only their warmth, for what felt like several minutes.

“… Tiamat. We need. A plan. To capture.”

It wasn’t until Ram Hwajung, who had been crouching in the corner of Ram Hwayeon’s office and observing the entire conversation, muttered something that they finally pulled away from each other.

“Ahem! Oh, that’s right, Ram Hwajung is still here.”

“Hwa… Hwajung, aren’t you leaving?”

“Where. Would I go. Planning. Against. Tiamat.”

She was implying that there was no reason for her to leave when they still had to discuss strategies and tactics against Tiamat.

Ram Hwayeon found it difficult even to raise her head upon hearing Ram Hwajung’s brief words.

In a flurry, Leeha pulled up a chair and began rapidly scanning the scattered maps and documents.

“Let’s see, so to face Tiamat and the Chromatic Dragons at our defense line… huh?”

Amidst his frantic reading due to the embarrassment, something caught Leeha’s eye.

“This.”

With Leeha’s hand and eyes fixed on one spot, Ram Hwajung scurried over to his side.

She already knew what the drawing and explanatory notes next to it were.

“〈Ice of the Abyss〉. Keep. Using. It.”

“Keep, ah, right. We haven’t been able to use it for an extended period in the videos―Keep, keep using it.”

Leeha pondered over Ram Hwajung’s words.

What was written here wasn’t an impossible idea. They had already used it a few times, hadn’t they? All it needed was to be executed on a larger and grander scale.

“Oh, that? There shouldn’t be any major issues. But why?”

Having finally regained her composure, Ram Hwayeon also approached Leeha. As she glanced at the document Leeha was holding, she asked nonchalantly.

Leeha’s gaze slowly turned towards Ram Hwayeon.

“I think we can do it.”

“What?”

“If we do it right, we can do it.”

Though she couldn’t grasp the exact meaning of Leeha’s halting words, Ram Hwayeon understood.

Leeha’s eyes started to shine again.

She was one of the people who knew best what that meant.

Leeha grabbed a blank piece of paper and began writing something down. Ram Hwayeon quickly realized what Leeha was scribbling.

“This…”

“Yeah.”

Their eyes met, and they began sharing their thoughts swiftly.

Through their back-and-forth feedback, Leeha’s rough idea slowly began to take shape.

“If we change this number like this, wouldn’t it be possible?”

“Um, but we have to consider the ongoing battle scenario. There’s a high chance it won’t reach that much.”

“Ugh, it would be great to test this out for real.”

“This one task is impossible even with my current power. Even with our entire Hwahong Guild, we can’t achieve this output.”

“I know, I know. That’s what’s frustrating.”

But an idea was just an idea; there was no way to test it in practice.

Ram Hwajung peeked her head between them and glanced at the paper on the table. Late into the night, the light in Ram Hwayeon’s temporary office stayed on.

Perhaps through this meeting, they were crafting the Sacred Alliance’s last bastion that could aim to take down Tiamat or even beyond.
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Ha Leeha’s aggressive marketing strategy was not limited to within Middle Earth.

Their advertisement, posted on the community in a public hiring format, had soon spread across global communities famous for Middle Earth.

In South Korea’s largest Middle Earth community, the job postings of Ha Leeha were being discussed so frequently that they accounted for more than half of the board’s posts.

〈Title: Level 180, passed Ha Leeha’s interview ㅅㅅㅅ〉

〈Title: └re: Of course, you passed at 180, lol. Even level 160 passed.〉

〈Title: But is there really a reason to join Ha Leeha? Can’t you go alone?〉

〈Title: └re: Haven’t you seen the Tiamat video? What can you do alone? If you want to contribute at all, you have to stick together.〉

〈Title: └re└re: They say there are Demon King’s Fragment alongside, and lots of regular mobs, too.〉

〈Title: └re└re└re: What about the 38 dragons, lol? Even just breathing will unleash 38 breaths, insane. lol〉

〈Title: Can we really clear that? It just looks like an event boss.〉

〈Title: └re: I agree. Everyone will probably die trying, and then get level-drained. lol〉

“Of course, there would be a lot of pessimistic views. It’s understandable.”

Leeha scrolled through the posts, reading the endlessly flowing messages.

The atmosphere of “let’s all work together to hunt Tiamat!” and users cheering “hurray!” had its limitations.

〈Weekly HOT Post 1 – First video reveal of Tiamat (4 minutes 23 seconds).avi〉

The video showing Tiamat, which had surpassed 50,000 comments on Korean communities alone.

Just posting the Tiamat video on their YouTube channel had garnered thousands of new subscribers, making it the hottest topic across Middle Earth recently.

‘I should be grateful that there are people who haven’t lost their will after watching that.’

Even Leeha, who had watched it multiple times, found Tiamat’s true form terrifying.


No matter how many times he watched the video, identifying the weaknesses in the current situation was not easy.

First, they had to determine if Tiamat had a Dragon Heart.

If it did, and if destroying that was its weakness, then which of its six heads and six bodies contained it?

‘The strategy to conquer Tiamat shouldn’t take too long. It must end in ‘one try’.’

It had to be finished in a single attempt.

If their strategy got exposed, Tiamat wouldn’t fall for it twice.

Fortunately, many major guilds from other countries mimicked Ha Leeha’s strategy.

Especially users not affiliated with Fibiel were quickly joining the temporary defense forces recruited by large guilds from Minis, Shazrashian, and Kraven.

‘Has it already been two weeks since Hwayeon’s 〈Guerrillas〉 started their surveillance?’

It had been a fortnight in Middle Earth’s time since Tiamat’s initial appearance. Users hadn’t just sat idle.

〈Weekly HOT Post 2 – Analyzing Tiamat’s Specs Through Video〉

One of the representative posts was the second hot post, the analysis of Tiamat’s specs.

Leeha clicked on the post to check the content.

Various known facts about Tiamat were listed, but since there wasn’t much disclosed information, most of the post relied on the author’s conjectures.

‘But that doesn’t mean they are irrational.’

―If you look closely, you can see that it didn’t breathe after the first breath attack. I checked all the updated YouTube videos and observed from multiple angles; it appears that a significant recharge time is required. Regular dragons also need time to recharge their breath, so it’s only natural that Tiamat, being over 40 times bigger, does too.

The first was Tiamat’s attack.

‘The cooldown of its breath. It’s probably true that there’s a significant delay. If it could breathe without cooldown, even the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 would be wiped out. Moreover…’

―Those who watched the video attentively might have noticed this. You can see that the appearance of the chromatic dragons seems slightly altered. (Dragon raid participants must have noticed, right?) Overall, the scales are erect. Erect scales likely indicate an excited state. The gap between the scales has increased compared to when they are flat, which might mean decreased defense and increased attack power. This is something we would need to test in battle. Also, a small horn seems to have grown on their foreheads, which might be related to increased attack power or magic.

The second issue was the impact of Tiamat’s arrival on the chromatic dragons.


“This requires a little more investigation. Wouldn’t users affiliated with Minis, like Raphaela or Rubini, know more about this?”

Leeha had seen chromatic dragons up close.

However, since it wasn’t in a combat situation, he couldn’t pinpoint the differences as clearly as they did.

Above all, the horn-like protrusion on their heads seemed to be just a matter of video quality in Leeha’s view.

Then, there was the third and most significant issue, enough to be selected as the weekly hot post.

There was content that even Leeha couldn’t help but fully acknowledge.

―If we compare their sizes, this is the scale chart. We’ll look at the Blue Dragon, which is the most uniformly distributed among the chromatic dragons. For those who can’t determine the length or height due to Tiamat’s wriggling body, this picture will help you out!

Using graphic editing software, the poster had isolated Tiamat from the video and separately isolated the Blue Dragon.

After adjusting the Blue Dragon’s size according to the distance, he matched the length of the Blue Dragon with Tiamat’s body segment by segment.

For Leeha, this was not a difficult task.

Leeha clearly remembered Onyx’s size, and since he knew Onyx’s size near Tiamat, the task of measuring Tiamat’s size was automatically conducted based on that.

It was a target size assessment that any sniper could clear effortlessly.

However, as general users could not do it easily, such an analysis post naturally gained popularity. Since there was little discrepancy between the analysis provided by the post’s author and the figures in Leeha’s mind, he had to acknowledge the analysis to some extent.

―If we consider this as one piece of Tiamat’s body, the total length or overall length is about—

This also contributed to Leeha’s gratitude for the participation of general users in the event.

―530 meters! Isn’t it shocking? A single monster is 530 meters long! And it’s the form of six 530-meter-long bodies twisted together! It’s certain that the developers of Middle Earth are not normal!

“The last sentence is 100% spot on. If only I could meet the GMs again, I’d shout at them. Even the length of Tioon was longer than an average dragon, but this is just…”

Although it’s mentioned as length, not height, it required about fourteen Tioons lying down to match that size!

Not just the overall length, but what about the height and thickness? The overall height and length required several Tioons each.

‘No, tioon is not the problem. If it’s 530 meters… it’s on par with the tallest building in our country.’


Moreover, such things are alive, moving, and wriggling.

If the overwhelming presence of a typical dragon came from its enormous height and wingspan, then Tiamat’s overwhelming factor was purely its immense size, excluding all those ‘trivial’ characteristics.

Was this really something to be tackled?

Even Leeha began feeling a sense of skepticism after grasping Tiamat’s specifications.

‘Is Lark’s Sword really capable of taking this thing down?’

Even with Bahamut’s affirmation, Leeha couldn’t help but doubt due to the sheer size of the enemy. He shook his head and closed the internet browser.

At least, it was reassuring to see that the flow of users gathering wasn’t disrupted.

‘The rest… are tasks that need to be handled within the game.’

How much have the other users investigated Tiamat?

Not just Alexander, but almost all users within the official top 100 and the unofficial top 1,000 were now focusing solely on Tiamat. It was possible that secrets Leeha hadn’t even thought of had already been uncovered.

Leeha headed to the Middle Earth login device.

As he prepared to log in, changes were subtly occurring within Middle Earth as well.

The first to encounter the incident was Prea.

“Kyahak―!”

The white-eyed spiritualist suddenly collapsed as her vision narrowed.

『Huh?! Prea, are you all right? Your life force has plummeted.』

“Noea― Noeanen! Call Elestera quickly, quickly!”

As soon as the highest-ranking Earth Spirit, Noeanan, heard Prea’s plea, it vanished into the spirit realm.

What appeared in its place was the highest-ranking Water Spirit, elestera.

The moment she appeared, numerous water droplets formed around Prea.

『Prea, what’s going on? This kind of damage…』

After raising her HP somewhat with Elestera’s healing skill, Prea hastily opened the friend window.

Unable to properly respond to Elestera’s question, Prea’s expression darkened as she scanned the friend window.

‘Logged out, really? Oh!’

When one of the IDs in the friend window lit up, her expression finally brightened.

However, her face darkened again as soon as she whispered.

—Ha Leeha-ssi!

—Ah, yes, Prea-ssi. Hello—

—We’ve been caught! The dark spirits, the Shades have been detected!

Leeha was perplexed as he listened to her story.

Weren’t they the dark spirits that had gone undetected even near the Demon King’s Fragment?

—What? But on Bluebeard’s side…

—Right. Even when his face scrunched up, Le couldn’t notice the Shades.

—Then— No way?

—Yes. That ‘no way’.

Immediately, Leeha took out his crystal ball.

—Where are you now?

He needed to hear the story immediately.

This would likely be the ‘last’ moment to get vivid information about Bluebeard, including Tiamat, near the Demon King’s Fragment.

Simultaneously, Leeha also contacted Ram Hwayeon.

—Hwayeon!

—Huh? What? Hwayeon, why are you suddenly just using my name…

—I’m sorry, but we don’t have time to talk. Get the scroll ready now! It seems something unusual is happening with the Demon King’s Army.

—Unusual? Got it. I’ll station paleo for defense and activate the scrolls immediately. We can roll the Middle Earth clock for exactly ten more days with the current budget of the Sacred Alliance.

—Yes, please.

Ram Hwayeon burst out of the office door of the temporary command center, shouting.

“Red alert! Entering red alert status immediately! Activate all scrolls including alarms and teleport detection! Broadcast emergency contact network and prepare for warp gate establishment in Lope Continent’s cities!”

From now on, neither Ram Hwayeon, Hwajung, nor anyone in the Sacred Alliance protecting the central part of the New Continent would be able to rest easily.

“Tiamat is likely to move! All guild members, to your positions!”

After a fortnight of calm, the news that the chromatic dragon might finally move left everyone’s legs weak with fear at even the mention of its cosmic terror.

It took only seven minutes for this name, frightening enough to sap the strength from knees at the mere mention, to resound throughout both continents.
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“Any news?”

“N-No, sir. I gathered information about ‘that side’ as per your orders, but…”

“Even with hints, you still can’t figure it out?”

Bluebeard clicked his tongue and added, “Well, it makes sense. The bastard was exceptionally skilled in that area. Hiding it would be no different. I guess it was still too much for you, Faust.”

“I have nothing to say.”

Faust bowed his head deeply. Bluebeard stared at him coldly for a moment before turning away.

Le had given Faust a quest to investigate the whereabouts of Chiyou and the Arcane Sniper, but Faust’s quest completion percentage was a mere 9%.

He still had three weeks left of the one-month quest, but Faust was frustrated, knowing that the problem wasn’t just about time.

‘Damn it, can’t believe Igor and Pyro didn’t leave a single trace. If only I could use the spirits, I might track down Igor by digging into Czar’s secrets…’

Faust’s movements were severely limited as he wandered the old continent, and even if he utilized his abilities to the fullest, there were still constraints on the undead’s movements.

The further they moved away from him, the lower their intelligence became. When the distance widened between the new and old continents, even the carefully crafted summons would turn into mere ‘fodder mobs.’

Thus, Faust himself thought it was a miracle that he had even reached 9%.

In other words, there was only one way to fill the remaining 91%.

“Dame Shin.”

“… What’s it?”

“Why hasn’t Lark logged in?”

The only user who could bring him valuable information.

Faust asked with a frustrated tone, and Shin Nara’s expression stiffened.

“How would I know that? And why are you talking down to me? We’re not that close.”


Shin Nara did not even stand up.

Although she remained seated with her knees together, the slight force in her voice made Faust flinch.

“T-T-That’s— ahem, that’s because we’re on the same boat—no, ms. Shin is right. I apologize.”

The change in rankings caused by Prea’s level-up was a painful event for Faust too.

At the same time, he could still feel how great it was that Shin Nara, who hadn’t been leveling up actively and was mostly with Lark, managed to stay at the 8th rank.

“Lark-ssi has something urgent to handle and won’t be able to log in for a while. If it’s urgent, I could deliver the message outside, but that’s not really the issue, is it?”

“Ugh—! It is urgent. We need to know Chiyou’s whereabouts to— um?!”

“Huh?”

Both Faust and Shin Nara turned their heads simultaneously.

─────────────!

A roar echoed deep in the forest. It was an overwhelming sound that couldn’t possibly belong to a mere beast, shaking all the nearby branches.

“Ho… Onyx has quite some skills.”

Bluebeard was also looking in that direction.

Even Ghibrid, who always had his arms crossed, unfolded them.

For a mere ‘roar’ to elicit such a different response from the Demon King’s Fragments!

“Has he completed it?”

“No, it doesn’t seem that way, Ghibrid. But… it certainly isn’t as dull as it has been.”

Bluebeard was staring into the darkness.

Shin Nara and Faust also followed Le’s gaze.

Footsteps began to be heard from the once silent darkness.


The sound of light footsteps soon turned into that of numerous marchers.

Le had already taken off his hat and tidied his clothes.

To welcome a young girl with sharp focus who finally appeared in the midst of the users and Demon King’s Fragments.

“This is it! Finally, we can communicate, Tiamat.”

“… Le.”

Even though she still appeared as a young girl in human form, Faust could tell. She had changed so much that it wouldn’t be an exaggeration to say she was an entirely different being from the girl who could barely speak a short while ago.

“Hmm. The Queen, is it?”

“Ghibrid.”

Ghibrid also gave a light nod toward Tiamat. Tiamat received the greetings from the Demon King’s Fragments.

Then, she pointed at them with both index fingers. Le carefully put his hat back on.

Faust and Shin Nara stood a bit away, unable to move, and watched the scene unfold. They felt something gather at the tips of her fingers.

────────────!!!!

“W-what…

『Bone Shield』!”

“Grrk!? 『Lower Body Enhancement』!”

Beams of various colors shot out. Faust and Shin Nara hurriedly used their defensive and agility-boosting skills to evade, but fortunately, the attack was not aimed at them.

“… This can’t be.”

Shin Nara swallowed dryly.

If they had known, could they have dodged the attack? No, could they have even reacted?

A ‘line’ appeared from Tiamat to the space where Le and Ghibrid had been moments before and extended further. It was as if that part of the dense forest had been completely cleared. Tiamat’s attack had entirely flattened every tree, every rock, and every geographical feature.


* * *

“My Lord, count!”

Faust frantically looked around.

It was evident that simple attacks would not affect the Demon King’s Fragments. Ordinary attacks or skills wouldn’t have caused him any concern.

But now?

The sudden attack by the Queen of the Chromatic Dragons was powerful enough to startle Faust, who was the first user to contract with Bluebeard.

“Count―”

Shuuuuuuuuuuuuu―!

As Faust looked around, Bluebeard and Ghibrid descended from the air and landed.

“Hooo… That’s quite unsettling, Tiamat.”

“Do you wish to return to being a lump of meat?”

Bluebeard, landing without stirring a speck of dust, and Ghibrid, causing the ground to tremble with his landing, displayed completely opposite auras, but their expressions were the same.

Tiamat also did not show any sign of panic. She moved her arm to point at Ghibrid and Bluebeard again. As the tension between Tiamat and the Demon King’s Fragments reached a boiling point, Onyx spoke up.

“Le. How dare you speak such words. Why… why would you contaminate the Queen’s being with impurities!”

For a brief moment, Shin Nara and Faust saw Onyx’s eyes glance at Tiamat. It was apparent that speaking out was the only option to prevent the situation from deteriorating further, which was why the Black Dragon chose to intervene.

Bluebeard looked at Tiamat and Onyx for a moment before striking his forehead with a loud smack.

“Ah! Onyx! Didn’t I tell you beforehand? It was unavoidable.”

“Shut up.”

As Bluebeard jested, Tiamat’s brow furrowed.

The beam, which gathered on his fingertip and shot out like a breath, was cast with an absurdly short casting time, yet even faster was Le’s mouth.

“No! Seriously! What could I have done back then? Huh? There wasn’t a single one of your children, Tiamat! I, too, expended quite a bit of mana. You would know that better. Is it even possible for a being like you to emerge into this world with the expulsion of ordinary mana?”

As Le pointed to his abdomen, the front of his white shirt began to turn blue.

In truth, that wound was from a battle with Bahamut and had nothing to do with Tiamat, but as Tiamat hesitated to attack, he spoke even faster.

“From the start, would you have even been able to awaken without me? Is it right to treat the person who summoned you this way? Upon hearing the news that Onyx and your children were coming, I went to ‘greet’ them, hence the opportunity to partially share the pain of your true form. If you disagree, feel free to shoot me.”

Faust and Shin Nara were startled.

Bluebeard would speak like that? His specialty was subjugating through force when words failed. But now, he was using his own life as a bargaining chip for persuasion.

‘Could it be— Tiamat is stronger than Bluebeard?’

‘Due to the wounds from the battle with Bahamut— no, even so, for him to speak like that with Ghibrid present…’

It was possible because the Chromatic Dragons were together, but either way, Le had effectively acknowledged Tiamat as the strongest in the room.

However, Bluebeard did not look the least bit servile.

As Tiamat refrained from attacking Bluebeard, Onyx spoke up.

“… Couldn’t you wait for us, Le?”

“Indeed! The only one who approached and conversed with me was that ‘impurity’ that Onyx, you referred to! So naturally, I used his head! Otherwise? Should I have waited until you all arrived… to gift Tiamat with Onyx’s head instead?”

“That’s going too far!”

“Quiet.”

Onyx was about to erupt in anger, but Tiamat silenced him with a single word.

She glanced back and forth between Le and Ghibrid.

“Fine. Whatever nonsense you spout, this chimera wriggling in my head will not move according to your whims.”

“There was never such an intention.”

“Hmph.”

As Le slowly bowed his head, Tiamat snorted.

Her confidence that she could devour two Demon King’s Fragment at any time was evident in her words and demeanor.

‘Chimera…?’

Faust tilted his head in confusion.

During the fight between Kijung, Lee Jiwon, Bluebeard, and Ghibrid, he had been in the eastern New Continent.

Since chaos ensued right after his return, he wasn’t aware of Tiamat’s current situation.

As Tiamat stepped into the darkness, Onyx approached Shin Nara.

“Woman.”

“Yes? Yes.”

“Call Lark. The time is near. The queen’s pain alleviation is over.”

“Pain — understood. I’ll summon him immediately.”

“Wait. Before that.”

As Shin Nara was about to rise, Tiamat called her.

“Yes?”

With a slightly tense expression, she looked at Tiamat.

Tiamat stared at Shin Nara and Faust for a moment before turning her head somewhere.

“Nobody knew ‘those’ existed until now?”

“Um? What do you mean, tiama—”

Swoooooooosh———!

Before Bluebeard could finish his question, Tiamat pointed her finger somewhere.

When the beam firing from her fingertip lit the night, there was a faint sound of something evaporating in that direction.

TL’s Corner:

So Tiamat was the one who found the dark spirits!
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“Spirit?”

“… Was it the spirit of darkness?”

Ghibrid was genuinely surprised, but Bluebeard quickly regained his composure. Tiamat observed each of the individuals one by one, then nodded.

“Foolish creatures. It’s pitiful that we have to end Bahamut with the likes of these. Let’s go, Onyx.”

“Yes, my queen.”

She soon disappeared into the darkness with Onyx. The chromatic dragons followed her.

After they all vanished, Bluebeard’s expression started to distort in earnest.

“Faust!”

“Yes, my lord!”

“Find Prea first. That damned Spiritualist!”

“I understand.”

Faust immediately bowed his head. Le, still with an angry face, looked at Ghibrid.

“Ghibrid. What about Kuzgunak’sh head?”

“… It’s not responding. It seems they have subdued it.”

“Damn it… Damn that woman—ugh—! No. Fine. That’s just right.”

Le forced a smile and pressed his hat firmly onto his head.

It was only after waving his staff in the air that he regained his usual demeanor.

“Well then, it seems Tiamat is prepared, so we should get ready as well.”

“I will gather the Chimeras.”


“We’ll need plenty. And Faust, you—hmm?”

“Yes, count.”

Bluebeard’s mouth paused as he was giving orders to Ghibrid and Faust.

Faust, cautiously lowering his head, waited for his reaction, but he remained silent for a considerable period.

“Count… my lord?”

“Heh, Faust, you prepare on your end. Create as many undead as possible. I need to attend to something.”

“Yes, my lord! I will make sure to…”

Before Faust could finish speaking, Bluebeard disappeared from sight with an impressive leap.

Faust, who was about to guess where Bluebeard had suddenly gone, shook his head.

“As many as possible, huh…”

To match the number of undead displayed in the quest window, he had to keep moving.

Prea couldn’t know about Tiamat’s departure or the conversations between Bluebeard, Ghibrid, and Faust.

The spirits of darkness had all been eradicated by Tiamat.

“I probably won’t be able to bring their stories any longer. Bluebeard must have noticed—”

“Indeed!”

Leeha nodded as he listened to Prea’s story.

If Bluebeard made up his mind and prepared, no matter how powerful the spirits of darkness, they wouldn’t be able to get close to him again.

Still, Leeha deduced a few things from Prea’s story.

– That Tiamat and the Demon King’s Fragment did not get along well.

– That Lark was not currently active.


– That Shin Nara could summon Lark without hesitation at Onyx’s request.

‘And Onyx’s mention of “when the time comes”.’

How did their expressions look?

If he could have seen it, his predictions would have been more certain.

‘Nara’s swift reaction… as if she was waiting, and why would Lark log out at such a critical moment?’

As Leeha’s thoughts continued to spiral, Prea, with a nervous look, asked him.

“Do you not suspect me?”

“What?”

Leeha tilted his head at her sudden question.

What was this all about?

As Leeha looked puzzled, she seemed even more flustered.

“Th-that, my story! There’s no guarantee it’s true! The Dark Spirits might not actually be dead… Just, uh, is that it?”

Could it be that they wouldn’t even try to confirm or question the truth of the story presented so suddenly?

What Prea wanted to ask was that very point.

No matter how much they trusted each other 100%, this situation was on a whole different level.

Things had progressed so rapidly that even Prea, who usually maintained her composure, felt uneasy!

“Hehe, yes. That’s it.”

“But what if I betray you in this situation―”

“If we’ve decided to trust each other, we trust.”

Leeha nodded at Prea once more, adding with a smile.


“If a sniper doesn’t trust their spotter, how can they pull the trigger?”

There was no need for a second view.

What was needed for an efficient, perfect, and complete shot came from trust.

Prea completely crumbled at Leeha’s words.

* * *

After finishing his conversation with Prea and briefly stopping by Ram Hwayeon’s fortress, Leeha headed directly to the central part of the New Continent.

Already, many users and NPCs were gathered there. Kijung, who had been busy organizing the front lines, looked at Leeha and smiled.

“Hyung, you’re here?”

“Wow, you’ve gathered this many already?”

The emergency contact network spread by Ram Hwayeon hadn’t been confined to just online.

If there were users logged out, their acquaintances would be contacted, and they would be called in offline immediately. This quick system ensured that rankers and key users were continuously arriving at the central part of the New Continent.

“They haven’t been caught yet, right?”

“No. There were a few sightings of Chimera movements, but they weren’t directed toward us. They’re probably regrouping.”

It was Rubini who answered Leeha’s casual question directed at Kijung.

The scroll she handed over could map and observe over quite a distance, but it wasn’t as good as her direct skills.

“Hello, Rubini-nim.”

“Hello, Ha Leeha-nim.”

When Leeha greeted her awkwardly, she bowed slightly.

Seeing her demurely respond while tucking her hair behind her ear reminded Leeha of Ram Hwayeon.

‘What if she misunderstands again, thinking I did something?’

Leeha wanted to avoid any more absurd misunderstandings.

It was unfortunate for Rubini that it wasn’t entirely a misunderstanding.

As Leeha looked at Rubini’s map depicting the eastern part of the New Continent, he suddenly noticed something else.

The forest of the Corrupted World Tree was marked with a small tree, and the map was filled with countless tiny dots around it.

“Seeing it like this, there are so many.”

“Of course! Not only our Byulcho guild but also the guilds responsible for defense in the central New Continent, and the Ezwen Paladins are all here!”

“The central part is this vast? Who’s next to us?”

“That’s the ‘Sacred Alliance’. Over there are the Berturu Knights, and the guilds from Minis and Kraven are all lined up. Oh, and of course, there are Palaios mixed in as well.”

“And on the opposite side is the Sacred Knights and the Shazrashian Federation―”

“Of course. The Giants led by Karelin are also massive.”

Leeha marveled at the string of dots extending north and south.

To muster such a defensive line so quickly was impressive.

‘Their control is phenomenal.’

Ordinarily, this would have been even more widely spread.

The initial plan was to first grasp the enemy’s movements and then deploy thick and short defensive lines at probable points of attack.

“This isn’t even the full number. It’ll be twice as thick as this.”

“Ah, Hyein-ssi.”

“Hello, Ha Leeha-ssi.”

Hyein approached Leeha, who was examining the map.

Leeha understood what his words implied, but Kijung did not quite grasp it.

“Wait, hyung? How can it get thicker?”

“The regular users haven’t arrived yet.”

They did not expect overwhelming help.

However, if even users under level 200 gathered in the hundreds, thousands, or tens of thousands!?

What if they could at least handle a few chimeras, a manticore, or even a single chromatic dragon? Wouldn’t that be of great help to the defense forces?

“Ah! Right. Ram Hwayeon-ssi was—huff, no, um, well! Anyway! Those users!”

Since Ram Hwayeon was the one who first planned and executed the strategy, Kijung wanted to praise her, but he couldn’t get the words out.

―”Be quiet. Don’t talk nonsense, Kijung.”

Leeha glared at him, whispering a threat(?) in his ear.

“Now that it’s come to this, we have no choice but to aim for a double win. I mean, in some ways, we might even call it luck.”

“Raphaela-ssi? What’s up?”

Raphaela had somehow slipped up beside Kijung and Leeha.

When Leeha asked her, she gave a mischievous smile that didn’t quite suit her saintly nickname.

“Hehe, Master Kay’s selection of C9. There are a lot of Paladins here, and in such a large-scale battle, a huge number of healers, and thus adherents of the Ezwen Church, will be affected. If Master Kay and I stand out—”

“Indeed!”

“That’s why you’ve been so quiet lately!?”

“Haaah! Did Master Kay not think of that? I didn’t mention it because I thought he already knew!”

Leeha’s admiration and Kijung’s surprise burst out simultaneously. Raphaela sighed in response to Kijung’s reaction.

“How did someone like you become a guild master? The guild master of a guild as famous as Byeolchosa is so clueless—”

“Even with such a guild master, it runs fine, so could you please not concern yourself with other guilds, saintess?”

As Raphaela grumbled, Bobae approached her.

Although there were no monsters around, she was gripping her bow tightly with both hands.

Her face was smiling, but the bulging veins on her hands showed her real feelings.

“Do you think I want to meddle? But it’s necessary because someone who’s supposed to represent the Nine Cardinals Committee is behaving this way.”

“Hoho, I’ll do fine. Who do you think my boyfriend is? Right, Kijung-ssi?”

Bobae walked up to Kijung and linked arms with him. Raphaela’s face hardened a bit.

Hyein and Leeha watched the scene unfold.

The two men quickly exchanged signals.

― “Kijung, I’m leaving now. Good luck.”

Then they discreetly slipped away.

Seeing Leeha move, Hyein also twirled his staff and began to leave the scene.

― “Hey, hyung! Help me! What’s going on!? This isn’t even Bobae-ssi’s assigned area, who called her here?”

― “You reap what you sow. What’s this about not cheating? Only you thought that. Haha, anyway, take care of the defense line! I’ll check the other areas!”

― “Wait! Hyung—where is Hyein hyung going now?”

The defenses at the center of the New Continent would be secure(?).

Enough troops, seasoned from battles with chimeras, manticores, and the like, had been deployed.

‘They won’t be able to surprise us this time. We have enough participants.’

They were well-prepared.

The latest intelligence from Phaera would prove its worth immediately.

Thinking of Tiamat’s main form still made them nervous, but now they had to suppress such feelings.

‘If they move within ten days… we have a chance to win.’
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Leeha suddenly wondered.

How much had the enemy grasped about their movements?

“Come to think of it, how much do those guys actually know? Even if Lark and Shin Nara told them everything sincerely, there’d still be limitations. Faust lacks intelligence-gathering capabilities. So, they probably don’t know about our defense lines, right?”

That was the key issue. The enemy no longer had a user to provide them with information.

Chiyou’s defection!

Both Shinobigumi and Yamato would work for Chiyou.

With Chiyou having defected from the Demon King’s Army, it became highly unlikely that Bluebeard and Ghibrid would detect the special movements of the users.

“I feel relieved, but at the same time… I feel uneasy.”

It was good that the Demon King’s Army didn’t know, but then, what exactly was Chiyou doing and where?

Even in Prea’s last intelligence report, there was no mention of Chiyou related to Bluebeard.

‘While keeping Kyle around, along with Elizabeth and Brown… No, she even has Shinobigumi and Yamato at her disposal― not to mention, she can utilize the Vampire Queen’s power…’

Why wasn’t there any movement?

Leeha pondered for a moment. If she led everything and became a third force to intervene in the battle?

A battle of this scale couldn’t possibly have escaped Chiyou’s notice.

Perhaps she already knew about the gathered defensive forces as well as the imminent invasion of the Demon King’s Army?

‘It’s entirely possible.’

Even excluding the shot Kyle used, there were still six bullets of Arcane Bullet left.

‘If we take Bahamut, Tiamat, Le, and Ghibrid, the four main NPCs, as hostages!?’

Ghibrid wouldn’t be able to move the Manticore and Chimera recklessly.

Le, of course, could not be ignored. And Bahamut and Tiamat? Wouldn’t they have to stop the movements of all the dragons following them?


“This is troublesome.”

But waiting indefinitely for Chiyou to appear wasn’t an option.

The choice wasn’t theirs to make; it was up to the invading ‘other side’!

How could they stop the gears that had already started to turn?

“We can’t stop Arcane Bullet anyway, and worrying won’t provide any answers, so I’d be grateful if she just showed up.”

If Chiyou showed herself, then…

They’d just need to kill her.

If the one giving orders was eliminated, they’d have time to persuade Kyle, Elizabeth, and Brown.

‘If only I could find out how to release Elizabeth from being a vampire during that time, persuasion would be possible.’

Leeha shook his head and took out a crystal ball.

Arcane Sniper was not someone who could be dealt with by mere predictions. Leeha stopped thinking about Chiyou and Kyle.

“I wonder how much preparation has been completed.”

Dealing with the immediate threat took priority.

He teleported to Gaza City, to Bottleneck’s smithy.

* * *

“Bottleneck-ajussi! Is the thing I mentioned last time completed? Soon, tia―”

“Damn it all! The sample you gave me was already an incredibly complex item! Yet you’re rushing me after only two days, wanting multiple copies of something even larger and more intricate!?”

Leeha couldn’t even finish his sentence.

Even while unleashing a barrage of harsh words like lightning towards Leeha, Bottleneck neither looked at him nor stopped his hammering.

After concluding his calculations with Ram Hwayeon last time, Leeha had immediately asked Bottleneck to craft the requested item.


He had even brought an item to use as a sample and thought it could be made rather quickly. However, it didn’t come out as expected.

“Is there anything you need? I can somehow manage to get the necessary materials. Right now, making this should be our top priority.”

“… I understand. You already explained how this would be used. But — I can’t focus solely on this.”

“What? Why? Bottleneck-ssi, you are the head engineer of Gaza City! It’s your job to handle Gaza City’s affairs first!”

“That’s true. But I can’t ignore the requests from Kidd and Luger either!”

When Leeha tried to argue, Bottleneck finally looked up and met Leeha’s eyes.

A faint smile played on Bottleneck’s lips.

“Huh? What did they ask you to make?”

Requests from Kidd and Luger? If it was the ammunition they usually took, there was already a mountain of it stacked in the forge.

Boxes specifically storing ammunition for the Three Musketeers, Leeha, Luger, and Kidd, had been set up due to the importance and frequency of ammunition supply.

But a new request?

“Haha! It’s pretty funny. True to their name, the Three Musketeers showed up the same day, each whining at slightly different times! Their requests weren’t that hard, and they had already thought up designs, so I could quickly draft blueprints. That’s why your request got delayed, so understand that! But don’t worry, your stuff is being made by me personally, while the Beard Brothers are handling Kidd and Luger’s.”

“What?! The Beard Brothers! What are they making right now?!”

Leeha rushed into the forge.

If the Beard Brothers were working, it meant they were crafting the new items Kidd and Luger had requested!

“Phew, the Lord is here.”

“This is—”

“This is what Luger asked for.”

“This one belongs to Kidd.”

Leeha discovered two items. Each had more than one completed product.


“This is…”

Even looking at them, Leeha couldn’t predict their use.

—

“What are these? I mean, they look completely different from each other.”

Leeha first focused on Luger’s item.

Simply because it seemed easier to understand compared to Kidd’s, though Luger’s item didn’t make immediate sense either.

“Right, they are different.”

“Did Luger order several of these?”

“Yes. Haha, they might look simple, but getting the balance and center right was pretty tricky.”

The younger of the Beard Brothers wiped his nose smugly yet humbly boasted. Leeha could comprehend one thing.

“It looks… like a bullet.”

Among the items on the table, Leeha picked one up.

It was an elliptical object. Many times larger than a typical bullet, but similar up to a point.

It started streamlined and then thickened.

The difference was that while regular bullets ended with a fixed cylindrical shape containing gunpowder, Luger’s item tapered off again into a streamlined shape.

“However, it seems to lack gunpowder… In that sense, it resembles Luger’s early cannonballs.”

Back in the days when bullets were propelled by the explosion of separately installed gunpowder instead of containing it within the bullet itself. The form was similar to initial cannonballs, like iron balls.

For Luger, who had mastered all sorts of modern ammunition, it was rather primitive.

Leeha wanted to check the item’s description.

But the Beard Hyung grabbed Leeha’s wrist, preventing him from doing so.

“If Luger finds out I told you or if you check in advance, he’ll raise a fuss. Hehe, just look for now.”

“Tsk, I’d love to say this is my blacksmith shop in my city! But you’re right. That bastard would curse me endlessly.”

From the dwarf’s words and actions, Leeha could deduce that his guess was somewhat accurate.

The fact that they prevented him from handling it, and that the Beard Brothers tried to gloss over it, indicated that Luger’s item was either a bullet or somehow related to bullets.

“Keke, alright then! Next is this. Do you know what this is?”

The dwarf, with an excited expression, pointed to the next item. Leeha immediately shook his head.

The second item was something he couldn’t even begin to imagine.

“I truly have no idea. A horn? But the holes all over…”

It looked vaguely circular but wasn’t quite a circle.

The item resembled a combination of a trumpet’s bell and a circular shape.

Moreover, there were numerous holes around the circle, making it appear even stranger.

The problem was that the holes were not small enough to be covered with fingers.

Could it be that you block the holes with your fist and blow into it to produce sound? But there didn’t seem to be a place to put your mouth.

“Don’t know? Hehe, let me give you a hint. Here, if you apply force to this part―”

Wham!

As the dwarf touched a part of the bell, four rods suddenly popped out.

“Whoa!? This is your hint? Is a horn with four directional wings supposed to be a hint?”

“Indeed, indeed!”

Leeha tilted his head and examined it once more.

The wings were aerodynamic, designed to minimize air resistance and maintain direction.

‘So, this thing that looks like a horn head is the front… with holes on the upper left, lower left, upper right, and lower right. Why?’

Judging by the aerodynamics, it was clear that it was meant to be shot.

That would mean this too was a kind of bullet…

‘How do you shoot this? The shape being fundamentally close to a ball means it could maybe be stuffed into a barrel and shot.’

But what would be the point?

This, too, lacking any gunpowder, bore similarities to Luger’s item. As Leeha shook his head and put it down, the Beard Brothers burst into hearty laughter.

It felt somewhat like Luger was mocking him, which somewhat dampened his spirits, but he didn’t have time to think about that now.

Leeha had to focus on Kidd’s item, having failed to determine the exact purpose of Luger’s items.

“Kidd’s items―oh, there are already three kinds?”

“Keke, if you couldn’t guess Luger’s, don’t even think about guessing this!”

The older dwarf of the Beard Brothers looked at Leeha with a confident expression. Leeha turned to look at the younger dwarf working on Luger’s items.

‘The item being made now is the same as the ones placed on the table. So, did Luger request these two?’

It appeared Luger’s requested items were already mass-produced. However, Kidd’s items were slightly different.

Both items placed on the table and the current item being refined on the anvil all had slightly different forms.

“What should I call this? Armor? At least it doesn’t look like a bullet. It doesn’t seem to be for offense either.”

The item, much larger than a person’s hand, had a handle like that of a shield. The only reason to think of it as armor was that handle.

It didn’t look like an offensive weapon due to the lack of pointed parts.

‘The material… it feels like thin aluminum. It’s extremely light.’

Blocking anything with this would be impossible. It didn’t even seem to be a piece of jewelry.

‘Shrink the shield from a Hollywood ‘Captain America’ movie considerably, and it might look like this? But blocking anything with it seems…’

Leeha gave up.

“Ugh! I give up! Damn it. They must have left these here with such self-satisfied faces, right?”

“But your item came first from the lord!”

“Oh! So my item! Did those guys see it?”

“They did!”

“What did they think? How did they react?”
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When Leeha asked, the Beard Brothers looked at each other. Then they burst into laughter.

『That damn Ha Leeha must be plotting something again.』 or 『Anyway, he’s just doing what he’s supposed to do, isn’t he?』

“You just nailed it! Acting all tough while missing the mark! Ha ha ha!”

Listening to their conversation, Leeha felt a strange sense of exhilaration.

Were they preparing another secret weapon against each other? Given the timing, it was certainly related to Tiamat.

‘Those guys couldn’t have missed the footage.’

What blossomed in a corner of his mind was relief.

It was a different kind of reassurance compared to seeing the thick defense line in the central part of the New Continent.

Witnessing new cards from recognized players served as a kind of refuge.

“Okay. Bottleneck Ajussi! Hurry! Finish mine quickly too!”

“W-wait! I’m hurrying as fast as I can!”

The time Leeha spent visiting Bottleneck’s smithy, spreading emergency alerts to Blaugrunn and Bahamut, and organizing his stats and preparations for war took roughly three hours.

Although he moved considerably fast, the enemies were not ordinary monsters.

Despite his expectations, they began to move extraordinarily quickly.

Beeeeep— Beep beep beep beep beep!

“Enemies detected on the radar!”

From the northern side of the central part of the New Continent.

Beep beep beep beep beep— Beep beep beep beep beep—!

“Multiple enemy signals detected from Doctor Doom’s scroll! They seem to be Chimeras!”


From the southern side of the central part of the New Continent. And from the center itself, within the forest of the Contaminated World Tree.

Shuuuuu!

“Already…….”

“They’ve come.”

“The stacks of scrolls were hardly worth it.”

The reaction came. Much earlier than everyone expected.

It had barely been five hours since they began deploying the stockpiled scrolls, enough for ten days, yet the enemy’s advance was rapid.

User players in the central part of the New Continent, including Kijung, were momentarily taken aback.

However, when gargantuan figures appeared on the map, they couldn’t even be shocked anymore.

“Rubini! This is—”

“Yes. It’s a dragon. At a straight-line distance of about 3.5 km. The chromatic dragons are spread out at regular intervals, but you might as well say they’re clustered together. The problem is……”

Rubini swallowed as she looked at the map.

“They’re coming with the Chimeras.”

The Demon King’s army, allied with the chromatic dragons, was coming.

More precisely, Tiamat, Bluebeard, and Gibehrid were coming.

* * *

“Prepare for battle—————!”

“Contact Hwahong Guild! As soon as the warp gate is ready, open it! We need to taxi all the users from the Old Continent here!”

“Summon Pei Wu for Hwangryong! Call all the rankers from the 〈Sacred Alliance〉! The enemy is coming!”

“Find Alexander! Contact Alexander and urgently request help from the metal dragon side!”


The frontline started to become noisy.

Even though they had simulated this several times and had undergone many practical training exercises, actual combat inevitably led to confusion.

As tension, excitement, and fear-induced trembling spread among the user players, Kijung lifted his sword and shield high, shouting.

“We can do this! Absolutely! Just like we practiced!”

The eyes of the user players turned to Kijung.

Standing on one of the roots of the Contaminated World Tree that protruded above ground, Kijung did not avoid the gazes directed at him.

He calmed his breathing and tore a Scroll of Voice Amplification.

『I’ll take the lead! I will block Tiamat’s and the Chromatic Dragons’ attacks from the front! All of you, shake off your worries—』

Then he raised his shield high.

A shield made from a giant’s bone, a jet-black shield that absorbed light amid the shining plate armor of the Holy Knight hypnotized the user players.

『—and fight! Let’s end this war, and Tiamat, together!』

The moment Kijung finished speaking, an emerald green sword descended and pierced through his back.

It looked as if the deity Ahlo particularly favored Kijung. When the green light from the emerald sword enveloped Kijung’s body, all the surrounding users cheered.

“Waaaaah!”

“Master Kay!”

“Master Kay!”

“He’s the best, the cardinal of exorcism!”

“We have a Holy Knight! Let’s gooo!”

Kijung kept smiling as he watched the users shouting to their heart’s content. It was a while later when he heard a woman’s voice in his head.

—”Really, if you intend to incite them, you have to do it properly! You need to clearly define Master Kay’s character to gain an advantage in the C9 vote.”


—”W-Was it not enough as it is?”

—”I told you to raise your shield when I used 〈Guardian’s Sword〉. It was a bit out of sync, and it ended up looking off.”

All of this was part of Raphaela’s plan. Even while preparing for the battle against Tiamat, she was concerned about the selection of the ‘Council of Nine Cardinals.’ Kijung felt a renewed sense of fear towards the Saintess.

‘It’s fortunate she’s on our side. After all, I’m the only one among the cardinals who can actively perform on the battlefield. If I don’t die and achieve something in this war—’

That was Raphaela’s strategy for his certain selection.

—”Is-Is that so? Ah, I’m sorry. I’m not really good at this…”

—”But it was good enough. As long as the reaction isn’t bad. There’s definitely no one more noticeable here than you, Master Kay.”

—”Haha. Indeed, if people like Alexander or Leeha-hyung were here, it wouldn’t have worked as well.”

—”By the end of this battle, you need to position yourself so you won’t be overshadowed, even if Alexander or Ha Leeha are by your side. The rule Master Kay must follow for that is just one.”

—”What is it?”

Raphaela’s voice paused for a moment after hearing Kijung’s question. Although only a few seconds passed, it felt like an eternity to Kijung, who was becoming anxious. Then, Raphaela’s voice came through again.

—”You must not die, Master Kay. As long as you don’t die—I’ll make sure to save you somehow.”

Her voice was undoubtedly trembling. However, the will embedded in her voice remained unshaken. Despite having various cards to play, including the skill 〈Dinosaurization〉, at that moment, it was Raphaela’s voice that Kijung found most trustworthy.

“Alright! I will survive no matter what.”

Kijung mumbled to himself, making a resolution. His voice was loud enough for those nearby to hear.

“Of course, Kijung! That’s the spirit!”

“Indeed. Leading from the front while ensuring survival! As expected of the best tank!”

“If it gets dangerous, call us immediately. With the magic formation here and the skills inscribed on your armor, instant summoning is possible.”

Bobae, Tale, and Hyein were all moved by their guild master’s resolve. Even Biyemi and Jin Gonggong praised him, saying things like ‘He might seem clueless at times, but he steps up when needed,’ and ‘In terms of character, he’s the best among the Middle Earth guild members.’

“R-Right? Aha, haha!”

Kijung felt a bit guilty, knowing all this was due to Raphaela’s whisper, but he hid it with an awkward laugh.

At the same time, Kijung sent a whisper to another person. The most critical point in this war! There was a person who needed to oversee this entire battle.

—”Ram Hwayeon-ssi! This is Master Kay! The enemies have appeared…”

—”I know. I’m already reporting to Supreme Commander Ewin.”

—”As expected, you are fast. Then, to Leeha-hyung…”

—”I’ve already informed him.”

The supreme commander of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉. If Ewin appeared, not only would the NPCs, but also the users who joined to strengthen the defense line here, would gain even more strength.

Ram Hwayeon had already finished her preparations.

― “Ah… As expected! There’s a reason why my aunt likes you, Ram Hwayeon-ssi. Leeha-hyung mentioned it. After visiting last year, my aunt kept talking to him about you~”

― “What― What?! What do you mean…?”

― “Puhahahaha! That’s all for today! I’ll tell you after the battle!”

Throwing a ‘bomb’ at Ram Hwayeon, Kijung relaxed.

He might have laughed even more heartily if he had known that Ram Hwayeon had staggered on her way to knock on Ewin’s door.

And as the saying goes, speak of the tiger, and it appears.

Swoosh―!

A pale violet light flashed beside Kijung.

“Kijung!”

“Hyung!”

Leeha appeared with a stern face.

He briskly moved to Rubini’s side to examine the map without any formal greetings. The distribution of the enemies was not as widespread as expected.

At least, until then, it was within expectations.

“Rubini-nim, what about Tiamat?”

“Still… not detected.”

There was no reason to spread out too widely, as long as Tiamat was present.

Colored dragons and chimeras? The same applied to them. As long as Tiamat lived, they would display even stronger power.

“3.3 kilometers in a straight line. Their advance is slow.”

“It makes me more uneasy, sensing their confidence.”

A few minutes had passed, and they had only advanced about 200 meters. It was a decidedly cautious approach.

Were they conserving strength for a sweeping attack? Perhaps Tiamat intended to show her power first, and then advance at full speed.

“It’s lucky for us.”

Nodding at Rubini’s words, Leeha recognized that, despite everything, buying even a little time was fortunate.

― “Blaugrunn-ssi, finish the report?”

― “Yes. The Lord has awakened. Bailephus-nim and Arzenmacht, along with all the metal dragons, are gathering here.”

At least it meant that the metal dragon leader had time to prepare.

Bahamut had issued a summon to all adult-level metal dragons, and it took them only a few seconds to gather.

― “However, he said he won’t come immediately. We should go first, and he will arrive when Tiamat shows her true form.”

― “Hmm, indeed. That may be better. Since we also have Bluebeard and Ghibrid on our side.”

If Bahamut revealed himself first and got exposed to an attack from the two Demon King’s Fragments?

There would be no one left to hold back Tiamat, even momentarily.

That would result in the worst outcome.

Therefore, knowing the locations of the main enemy forces was essential to prevent that.

“Rubini-nim, have you found the Demon King’s Fragments?”

“We can track Bluebeard. But Ghibrid and Tiamat are still unknown.”

Rubini fiddled with the holographic map.

Beyond where the chromatic dragons were clustered, there appeared one overwhelmingly large circle.

“Usually, it wouldn’t show up, but there’s a reason it’s revealing itself now.”

Although Rubini sought opinions from everyone, no one was quick to answer.

The sheer magnitude of power held by the Demon King’s Fragment displayed on the map gave them much to ponder.

Leeha was the only one to respond to her words.

“Well, there could be several reasons. The first is deliberate. Everyone here knows that damn thing loves to play tricks.”

“Huh? Hyung? Then what’s the second?”

Kijung asked Leeha.

Leeha did not answer Kijung. After closely examining the map and checking the direction, he pulled back the bolt.

The heavy clank of metal reverberated.
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Leeha took a standing shooting stance.

Several tentacles of Jellypong emerged, supporting the Black Bass like stabilizers.

With the direction pinpointed and no particular terrain obstacles, Leeha had no trouble finding his target through the scope.

Inside the scope, at a straight distance of roughly 3 km ahead, he could see clearly.

“Bluebeard…”

Wearing a hat and a neat tuxedo, the figure was walking while twirling a cane.

At a distance of about 3 km, Leeha’s scope allowed him to discern even the target’s facial expressions.

Noticing a slightly protruding mouth and an Adam’s apple moving rhythmically, Leeha frowned.

“Is he whistling?”

Does this mean that this level of war was not even considered a war to him?

Just how high were they gauging their chances of victory to display such nonchalance?

Leeha carefully adjusted the scope clicks.

Creak… creak…

“Hyung?”

Kijung and the other users watched the scene. The sudden shooting stance and meticulous adjustments heightened their tension.

“Hey, Ha Leeha? Are you going to shoot now?”

“Are you planning on making a preemptive strike? If it doesn’t work, we could unnecessarily provoke the enemies—”

“A long-range attack? Against someone who almost certainly avoids or deflects it? Ha Leeha, you’ve experienced this multiple times already! My arrows have never even grazed his coat!”

“That’s right. Normally, typical attacks wouldn’t work.”


Ignoring the users’ dissuasion, Leeha steadied his breath.

Indeed, the usual Bluebeard would be like that.

At a certain range, Bluebeard was nearly impossible to hit with long-range attacks.

One might even suspect he had a passive skill that automatically evaded distant attacks.

“But that’s not it. My attack did connect once.”

Strictly speaking, it wasn’t a perfect hit. He hadn’t wounded Bluebeard’s main body, at least.

But that was enough.

There was a time when Bluebeard failed to evade, and Leeha held that experience.

It was worth the attempt based on that alone.

“Hyung? But your explanation only mentioned the first reason. You didn’t share the second reason for shooting now—”

“Yeah. The first reason is that Bluebeard’s playfulness has kicked in. The second reason is that his condition is different from usual.”

Bahamut, who had lost his left arm, had yet to fully recover.

Although it was said that the arm hadn’t grown back due to Bluebeard’s demonic energy, it wasn’t supposed to hinder recovery this much.

Unless the power levels were similar.

If Bahamut got hurt by Bluebeard, could Bluebeard really be back to normal already?

“No way.”

Whooo…

He had to be cautious. It needed to end with a single shot.

What kind of attacks would an AI, like a Demon King’s Fragment, anticipate?

Would it think its location wasn’t exposed? Leeha shook his head.


Of course, Bluebeard wouldn’t think like that. The only reason he’d show up was because of one thing.

“An absolute confidence that no attack can harm him.”

Even while thinking this, Leeha felt more tense than ever. He’d never succeeded in hitting him with any attack.

“Hyung, but still! Even if he’s not in top form, he’s not just anybody! When I went in with Lee Jiwon, and back then too — he wasn’t at peak condition, but still blocked Lee Jiwon’s attacks flatly!”

“You’re right, Kijung.”

“What?”

“I said, ‘normally’, typical attacks wouldn’t work.”

“What does that mean?”

Haaa…

Leeha did not answer Kijung’s question.

Bobae and Hyein were the ones who looked surprised after hearing Leeha’s words.

“Ha Leeha? So that means Bluebeard is acting differently than usual―”

“You mean he’s making unusual attacks? If it’s not a normal attack, then!?”

Through the scope, Bluebeard still showed no change in expression.

He was just walking at a steady pace at the rear of the formation.

There were no obstacles obstructing the view of him.

The level of the skill ‘Distorted Vision’ had increased significantly. Although it hadn’t fully reached Bluebeard yet, a guideline was set for the bullet to fly up to 500 meters in front of the muzzle of the Black Bass.

That was enough.

It was enough to read the wind direction and speed and understand their impact on the bullet’s trajectory.

“Hyung! If it’s not a normal attack― use a skill―”


Before Kijung could finish speaking, Leeha held his breath. Then he quietly murmured the skill’s name.

“〈Single Destruction〉.”

Tuuu───kwaaaa─────!

“Gah!”

『Myong Myong!』

A recoil much stronger than usual hit Leeha’s entire body. Seeing Leeha grimace, Kijung quickly supported him.

“No, I’m fine.”

“Hy hyung! What was that? What’s going on?”

“What happened? If you gambled this much… you should have hit…”

Hyein spoke with a grim expression. Leeha nodded, meeting Hyein’s eyes.

It was then that Rubini, who had been looking at the map, spoke in a flustered voice.

“They, they’ve stopped!”

“What?”

“Bluebeard and―the advance of the Chromatic Dragons, including the Chimera, has temporarily stopped!”

“What― really?”

Users looked at the map. Indeed, the advance had momentarily halted.

“Hyung! What’s going on? Tell us quickly!”

In response to Kijung’s urging, Leeha lifted the rifle and looked through the scope. Bluebeard was standing in place.

The difference was that Bluebeard was now making eye contact with Leeha!

Ha…lee…ha…

Damn…bastard.

Leeha could read Bluebeard’s lip movements. Bluebeard was trembling with anger.

Bobae, who had been looking at the map, approached Kijung and Leeha, asking, “So, did Ha Leeha’s attack not work after all?”

Leeha shook his head.

“No. It worked. Precisely the effect I wanted.”

Leeha answered while still looking through the scope.

The reason Bluebeard glared at Leeha with fury!

His state hadn’t changed much from before. His dashing black silk hat and immaculate tuxedo were still in place.

But his hands were empty.

“I hit it. His staff.”

He had dodged all close-range attacks, but what about attacks from a considerable distance!

‘It certainly worked. Though it’s embarrassing to say it worked!’

Bluebeard had deflected Leeha’s bullets with his staff.

Would it be any different now than before? Leeha could confidently answer that question with a NO.

“His staff? What does that mean? Isn’t that for deflecting attacks―”

“Yes. But he won’t be able to deflect anymore.”

“No way!”

If it weren’t for the skill granted by the Spirit King of Destruction, 〈Single Destruction〉, such an effect wouldn’t have been possible with a normal attack.

From the beginning, Leeha hadn’t targeted Bluebeard.

“The staff has been destroyed.”

It had been Bluebeard’s weapon.

* * *

“The staff is gone? Hyung! How did you, how did you destroy it!?”

“No way! That staff was a weapon! Did you destroy it, Ha Leeha?”

Every member of Byulcho asked in unison.

Leeha replied with an awkward smile.

“I just tried to buy some time, but the effect was better than I expected.”

“Not knowing is even better! Uhahahah! Hyein hyung, get ready!”

“Okay! I will launch him immediately. 〈Reverse Gravity〉, 〈Space Grab〉!”

As soon as Kijung shouted, Hyein sent him flying into the sky.

Reversed gravity pushed Kijung 20 meters into the air in an instant. As soon as he was caught by Hyein’s second skill, Kijung tore the loudspeaker scroll.

『Everyone! Good news! Just now, we have destroyed the staff Bluebeard possessed!』

“What does that mean?”

“Le’s staff? The one that was emanating that dark energy— that one?”

“Is it possible to destroy that? How?”

The users were momentarily confused.

A gunshot was fired, but could a single attack produce such an astounding effect?

“Who? Who managed to achieve this?”

In the midst of the buzzing noise, Kijung heard someone’s question.

『Yes! We did it! The user with the first R- rank achievement and the slayer of Toon! The ‘White Reaper,’ Ha Leeha shot it! Once again, Ha Leeha completely annihilated Bluebeard’s staff!』

How much mental shock was needed to silence the words of those preparing for war— those who were soaked in tension, fear, and excitement?

At least, the fact that Bluebeard’s staff was destroyed, and that it was done by Leeha, was enough to shut them up for about 4 seconds.

And after those 4 seconds.

The explosive cheers that erupted from then onwards boosted morale across all fronts instantly.

Wooaaaa────────ng!

Amazzzzing────────────!

Crazy, this can’t be real─────!

It can be! If it’s Ha Leeha, it can be!

H-A-L-E-E-H-A! HA LEE HA!

The sight of everyone raising their weapons was a spectacle.

Even Rubini, who was examining the map, felt as if the chimeras and chromatic dragons might have flinched and retreated.

Of course, that was just Rubini’s personal wish.

Despite Kijung rousing the atmosphere and all the users being motivated, Leeha’s expression wasn’t exactly bright.

“Ha Leeha-nim, aren’t you happy?”

“Huh? I am happy. I am happy, but… it was a one-time opportunity.”

At least up to this point, it had been Leeha’s calculated move.

It was the best choice he could make at the time. Leeha had to believe in that.

〈Only One Destruction〉

Explanation: The Spirit King of Destruction, Bozmak, never stops his fist. His power can destroy anything that obstructs him. The Spirit King has granted you the authority to borrow his power.

Effect: Removes all defensive targets from the next attack

(Including all defensive gear, barriers, protection skills, etc.)

Mana: 1,500

Duration: Instant

Cooldown: 6 hours

One of the skills Leeha had verified through his fight with Prea.

The skill granted to Leeha by the Spirit King of Destruction among the Dark Elf guardian spirits possessed unimaginable power.

‘When Black Bass’s charge rate reached 50%, what I finally attained was an attack that ignored physical armor. But this…’
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It meant that it could not be blocked by any physical armor or mental skills.

There weren’t even the unique limitations of Middle Earth, which meant it couldn’t eliminate a target stronger than the user.

A skill with no grade or level restrictions.

The skill granted directly by the Spirit King, referred to as ‘Authority,’ possessed an extraordinary level of power.

*Given the chance, it would’ve been great if it could eliminate the staff and overlap with the function of “dealing damage while passing through” of Black Bass, but it remains a bummer. A six-hour cooldown… To use such a once-in-a-battle skill in one go is quite regrettable.*

It was a skill that could be used on only one of Tiamat, Bluebeard, or Ghibrid, and that too only once. And to use that opportunity to eliminate Bluebeard’s “staff”!

There was a clear possibility that a better chance might arise in the war that had yet to fully begin. However, Leeha regretted that he couldn’t save the skill until then.

“Ha Leeha.”

“Well, considering it dealt accumulated damage and left Bluebeard unable to recover from his injuries while disarming him, there couldn’t be a better outcome than this. We have to think positively.”

Leeha smiled at Rubinny.

In reality, this act was thoroughly calculated.

He didn’t know how strong Ghibrid or Tiamat was or what kind of evasion or defense they had, but at least he knew Bluebeard well.

‘If I take away the defense tool from Bluebeard, who has the worst compatibility with me—’

Even if it’s the Demon King’s Fragment, weakening in combat power was inevitable.

Moreover, preventing it from acting as it pleased was a significant achievement in and of itself.

‘I need to buy time until the item commissioned to Bottleneck is completed.’

How would Bluebeard react after losing his weapon? That was the only problem.

“Ghiiiiiibriiiiiid—!”

Bluebeard suddenly shouted the name of another Demon King’s Fragment.


Leeha hurriedly raised his scope to check if Bluebeard was looking towards Ghibrid, but he found that Bluebeard was still glaring at him.

Meeting Le’s eyes through the scope, Leeha felt a chill run down his spine.

‘That wretched bastard— I’ll tear him apaaarrrrt!’

Bluebeard roared.

The volume was such that all the users cheering for Leeha’s shooting winced and grabbed their armor.

His tie loosened, and his shirt buttons were torn off in a fit of rage, something even Leeha had never witnessed.

“Hyung, there must be a way to deal with that, right?”

Ghibrid responded to Bluebeard’s rage. The sudden increase in the speed of the chimera’s advance was proof of this.

*Click—!*

Leeha pulled the bolt. From now on, Leeha only had one task.

“So, um, I will be firing! Kijung, get ready!”

“Huh?”

He had to somehow reduce their number while there was still some distance!

Leeha swiftly aimed at the chimera cluster and shouted.

“〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉!”

*Crrrrrrrrrr…*

Thanks to investing all his stats into Agility, Leeha’s current Agility was 5,088.

Fifty 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉 bullets were fired toward the chimeras.

Even chimeras that could ignore normal attacks couldn’t withstand fifty 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉 bullets with each dealing approximately 42,000 damage.

Moreover, the cooldown of 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉 was merely one minute.


“Huuuup, 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉!”

When Leeha’s power, which was focused on melting the chimeras through accumulated damage rather than countering compatibility or weak points, started to fully shine, the enemies were only 400 meters away. Their ghastly forms were now visible to the naked eye.

After firing about eight rounds of 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉 while the chimeras advanced, Leeha couldn’t stay in that location any longer.

“Kijung!”

Leeha saw Kijung. Kijung nodded and grabbed his shield tightly.

“Yeah. Hyung, leave it to me from now on.”

This was not the place for a sniper to be.

He needed to find the optimal position, the best sniping spot, to eliminate the approaching enemies.

He hoped the plan he devised would work.

And he hoped the other users would think beyond the plan he created, as Leeha withdrew his body from sight.

Dudududududu…

The ground trembled with the advance of the chimeras, and behind them, colorful dragons emerged, flashing lights of various hues.

Even in the face of such imposing enemies, which could surprise anyone, Kijung stood confidently with his shoulders squared.

“If we’re going to die whether we retreat or not, let’s just die here!”

The best strategy to counter the enemy’s charge was not to defend and hold the line, but to clash with equal force.

However, knowing this and mustering the courage to do so were two different matters.

Even users who knew that interception, not defense, was the best defense found it hard to move swiftly for the first clash.

“Charge── no, forward!”

It only required the courage of one person to lead them forward.

Kijung, holding a bone shield from Toon, started to run.


“Let’s go, Kay!”

Following Kijung was Tale from Byeolchop, whose sword began to blaze with fire.

“Kikik, if you send the guild master alone, we’ll be doomed.”

“It’s been a while since we crashed into anyone. 〈Polymorph: Buffalo〉!”

Behind them were Biyemi and Jin Gonggong. Inside Biyemi’s spacious clothes, countless flasks clattered.

He was prepared to unleash all the poisons contained within them today. Jin Gonggong, who transformed into a massive 2.5m tall buffalo, also charged forward, kicking up dust.

“How can they leave me behind in this situation? 〈Thrust Shot〉! Isn’t that right, everyone?”

“Y-yes, that’s right!”

Bobae and the paladins of Ezwen released their arrows.

The light from Bobae’s arrows illuminated the defense forces, including the powerful charging gorilla Paleos and the various knight orders of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉.

───────────────!

When they joined Kijung, he was no longer alone.

He was merely the apex of the massive wedge extending from the corrupted World Tree in the central new continent.

Kijung barely suppressed the shivers running through his body and raised his sword.

“Then let’s kill them all!”

The first clash was inevitable between the leading chimera and the foremost human.

Most participants in the war planned to record and broadcast the first clash.

“Bring it on!”

Kijung crushed the five-headed chimera’s faces with his shield and delivered a powerful tackle.

The battle had begun.

* * *

“Take them down! Rip those chimera bastards apart!”

“Slice them to pieces! Smash them with blunt weapons and use fire attributes!”

“Ahhh! Who shot a fire arrow into my back!? Turn on the combat support system if you’re not confident!”

After the initial clash, users and chimeras became entangled in a chaotic melee.

There were users who had faced chimeras several times and others who encountered them for the first time, but the strategies circulated on the internet were being followed diligently.

The only problems were that theory differed from practice and the sheer, overwhelming number of chimeras. The corpses of users were already piling up, turning gray.

Among the shouts and screams spread the bizarre cries of the chimeras.

For users, these were unknowable cries, the final screams emitted by something burning or colliding within their bodies.

“Attack the weak points if you can find them! Aim for critical points if there are no instant kill spots!”

“Chimeras have no weak points. Just push them back! 〈Talisman: Fire〉!”

“Don’t get pushed back! Hold your ground and go airborne! 〈Cloud Dragon Step〉!”

Taoist Baeju and Taoist Mu scattered talismans into the air.

The talismans thrown by Taoist Baeju transformed into fireballs, momentarily halting the chimeras’ charge. The talismans scattered by Taoist Mu hardened at a specific height.

“Wow! It’s Hwangryong!”

“Hwangryong is here! Make way! Make way!”

“Don’t push, you idiot!”

However, once the frontline was fixed, changing it wasn’t easy. Even if they tried to make way for Hwangryong, attacks from the chimeras at the front made it impossible to distinguish hands from tentacles, faces from bones.

If they turned their backs, they would die, and if they didn’t move aside, they would collide with Hwangryong’s users.

Switching formations suddenly in the chaos of battle was an impossible task.

“It doesn’t matter! Team 1, team 2, team 3! Move as practiced!”

“Yes, sir!”

The guild, known for its swarm tactics, wouldn’t have overlooked such a point.

Amidst the chaos, it was impossible for users to adjust to their surroundings. Considering this situation, what solution did the Hwangryong guild’s predominantly Eastern martial arts user group come up with?

“Team 1, ‘Divine Formation: North Star Sword Array’!”

Seven Hwangryong guild members leapt into the air, stepping on the now hardened talismans and jumping once more.

While they distracted the chimeras’ attention with a double jump, the 18 guild members at the front stamped the ground simultaneously.

“Team 2, ‘Earth Formation: Mole’s Eighteen Trigram Palm’!”

Rumblings followed…

The 18 guild members vanished like moles into the ground and sprang up right in front of the chimeras, launching their fists.

“Kieeek!”

“Kyaaa!”

Scattered fire rain and descending flashes of swords from above, coupled with powerful fist energy surging from the front.

“Team 3, ‘Human Formation: Fierce Dragon Spears’!”

And from behind two teams, 36 spears thrust forward!

The spears, at least 4 meters long, fiercely rotated, piercing through chimeras as they passed between the users.

“Teams 4, 5, and 6! Follow through!”

“Yes, sir!”

The 61 Hwangryong guild members, including the team leaders, efficiently halted the chimeras.

The members of each team had the same job and similar levels. Their identical uniforms and almost identical builds made the movement of 61 people appear as swift as that of a single person.

“As expected! It’s Hwangryong!”

“Push them back! Even if we attack as we’ve been doing, hwangryong will handle it!”

The nearby users felt encouraged by their performance, rallying their spirits for a moment.

“Damn it, there are still too many chimeras!”

However, the three teams, comprising 61 members, were only dealing with about seven chimeras.

No matter how many high-level users there were, the chimeras wouldn’t be scared or retreat.

Only overwhelming power could fend off these nearly mindless monsters!

“You’re doing well. Don’t back down! ‘Hwangryong Eighteen Palms: Dragon Emerges from Water’!”

────────────!!!!

Hwangryong possessed just such power.

A yellow energy surged from Pei Wu’s fingertips into the sky, forming the shape of a dragon.

“Wow! Is that–”

“Yes! That’s Pei Wu’s skill!”

The Chinese-style dragon, imbued with a sacred golden aura, relentlessly pushed back the chimeras.

In the southern front of the battleground, the chimeras were being held off without much trouble during the early stages of the battle.

The same was true for the northern front, where Karelin and the giants were stationed.

“Ha ha ha! Push! Push!”

“What can any living creature do in front of a tank?”

“Crush them, smash them, blow them up!”

The giants, including the Amundsen Three Brothers, had not only fully repaired the giant armored car that once bested Leeha but had also increased its number.

“Follow the armored cars! Prevent anything from sticking to them!”

“Ha ha ha! At least this time, there’s no driver to disable our movement! Just keep the scraps off!”
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The giants who were chasing behind swung their huge mauls, axes, and maces, crushing the chimeras mercilessly as if pounding rice cakes.

Their power was truly astonishing.

As long as they didn’t get too caught up in the attack and stray from their formation, the giants displayed such a high level of skill that they felt like a single unit.

“Kill! Kill! Kill— Hey, what? Where did everyone go?”

However, even in such a situation, there were always those who lagged behind or got separated!

The giant who had been joyously swinging his twin axes suddenly realized he was alone, with no other users around.

“Kree-ee!”

“Kiyaaaa!”

The chimeras began to surround him.

Using the skill 〈Warrior’s Leap〉, he could escape once, but the battle tank had already moved quite far away.

“Ugh, fine! Damn it, come on—aaaargh?!”

The brave giant gripped his twin axes and tried to charge forward.

If not for the thirty-five tentacles that suddenly reached out to him, he might have succeeded.

The giant closed his eyes tightly, realizing that the attack hadn’t reached him.

“Uh, huh? Oh!”

It was inevitable.

Another giant had stepped in, blocking the tentacles aimed at him with their body.

“Karelin-nim!”

“Are you alright?”


“Yes, yes!”

“Huuuuup—”

The 12th ranked giant wore only tight-fitting tights.

As he flexed his muscles, which were more developed than those of a gorilla, the cluster of chimera tentacles he was holding was all torn apart.

〈Absolute Defense〉 grasps anything that comes within its range.

While mid-range attacks were possible, he could easily snap or crush tentacles connected to the main body, so Karelin did not fear the chimeras.

“Did you take the acid and poison resistance potions?”

“Of course!”

“Then get ready. We need to catch up with the front line.”

“Understood!”

The two giants ran toward the distant battle tank.

“Kree-ee-ee!”

Even then, tentacles continued to lash out, but they were nothing in the face of Karelin’s absolute defense. In the brief moment Karelin grabbed the tentacles, one of the twin axes would slice through them.

“It seems you’ve sufficiently enhanced your cutting power.”

“Heh! Of course! I’ve been waiting for days just for this event! I applied anti-slip whetstones and cutting enhancement scrolls.”

Karelin flashed a light smile.

No matter how much of a Demon King’s Fragment Ghibrid was, he couldn’t have calculated this.

“There’s a truckload of strategies against chimeras floating around on the internet! Now, it’s time for our 〈Sacred Alliance〉 to counterattack!”

Even the twin-axe giant, making such remarks, found the defense from the north and south relatively easy-going.

It was a natural thing.


The only thing they had to defend against was the chimeras.

The atmosphere was markedly different from the central New Continent, where chromatic dragons rampaged.

“Bre-Breath! Red and Black dragons are breathing fire at the same time!”

“All paladins, cast shields! Raphaela-nim!”

“Don’t worry! 〈Holy Barrier〉!”

In the central battlefield, monsters far beyond the threat of mere chimeras roamed rampantly.

* * *

Even though Raphaela’s Holy Barrier and the paladins’ shields were layered countless times, the Black Dragon’s acidic breath and the red dragon’s flame breath began to melt through them.

“They’re too strong! Judging by their size, they don’t even seem to be ancient-grade—”

“The speculations from the community were true! All the Chromatic Dragons have become stronger!”

An Ancient grade and an Adult grade melting through the shields of dozens of Paladins and the Saintess? The fact that at least two Ancients were needed confirmed that the community’s speculations were spot on.

The Chromatic Dragons had indeed grown stronger!

“The worst-case scenario from the internet’s speculations came true, and the best-case scenario missed! Those scales—the defense is insane! Even when I aimed precisely at the gaps, the arrows wouldn’t penetrate! ‘GIGANTIC ARROW’!”

Bobae repeatedly shot arrows, almost like javelins, but they couldn’t pierce through the scales of the flying Blue Dragon.

Under normal circumstances, the powerful attack would have either penetrated the scales or targeted the gaps in between to wound the flesh, but now it had no effect.

『You thought insignificant creatures like you could stand against us who serve the Queen! ‘LIGHTNING REVOLUTION’!』

The Blue Dragon swiftly circled around in mid-air and surged towards Bobae. The electrical energy forming at the tip of its open maw shot straight out.

Kijung could not run towards her.

Behind him, numerous users and NPCs were holding their ground.

To leave that spot, he would have to use ‘Dinosaurization’ to take a giant leap. But now wasn’t the time for that.


“Bo, Bobae!”

“Don’t come! I’ll stop it!”

A boy leaped in front of Bobae.

As Kijung was halted, the boy moved swiftly to stand in front of Bobae, fully exposed to the Blue Dragon’s lightning magic.

Bobae hurriedly stepped back in shock, nearly falling, and looked at the boy.

The boy, dressed in what appeared to be mage attire, faced the dragon’s skill without a shield or barrier.

“Get out of the way!”

Bobae yelled, but the boy didn’t even glance back as he stretched his left hand towards the approaching lightning magic.

Sizzle, snap, crackle!

“Ha Leeha spoke.”

Surprisingly, the Blue Dragon’s lightning magic disappeared in the boy’s palm.

“Save ‘Dinosaurization’ until Ghibrid appears.”

“Wh-who are you?”

Kijung tilted his head, staring at the boy’s face. It looked familiar yet unfamiliar. Who was he?

『Hahaha, you’ve come! Trash of Metal!』

“Metal—Ah!?”

Kijung gasped in shock, while the boy shook his head and looked at him.

“Blaugrunn! You’ve grown enormously!”

Blaugrunn, now nearly a young man, observed the Blue Dragon circling in the air. If the Blue Dragon was the representative of lightning in Chromatic Dragons, then the Bronze Dragon was the representative of lightning in Metal Dragons!

In the midst of urgency, Blaugrunn frowned momentarily at Kijung.

“Are you treating me like a child? How rude, Holy Knight! Tend to your duty facing the Chimera! Those Dragons—”

Even as Blaugrunn spoke, the Blue Dragon was rapidly charging in.

Blaugrunn gave Kijung a light shove and dashed out, jumping straight into the air.

Woooosh!

『—Leave them to us!』

As a turquoise gleam shone and Bronze Dragon appeared, countless flashes erupted behind him.

Silver, dull grey, copper, brass, and turquoise.

The arrival and transformation of the Metal Dragons, led by Blaugrunn, were visible across the entire central continent of the New Continent.

And heralding it all was, of course, the brilliant golden hue.

“Let’s go, comrade.”

『Today, we exact complete justice.』

Alexander and Bailephus appeared.

The eyes of all the Chromatic Dragons soaring in the battlefield changed.

* * *

『Finally, you emerge, those who consort with vermin!』

『This is the opportunity to achieve our long-awaited wish! Let us exterminate all Metal Dragons and unify under a single dragon!』

『The Queen is with us! With her, anything is possible!』

The Chromatic Dragons, which had been casting spells and breathing fire towards the users atop the Chimera’s head, began charging in one direction—the direction where the Metal Dragons were located.

『Foolish beings! Even if Tiamat has awakened, is it so noble to ally with the Demon King’s Fragment and lose your autonomy?』

『In the end, your demise is your own doing!』

『Our guidance shall make you atone with your lives!』

The Metal Dragons were not ones to back down.

Could this be the moment to put an end to the fateful rivalry between Metal and Color?

As the Metal and Chromatic Dragons drew closer, the users observing from the ground gained a clear understanding.

Usually, aside from the color difference, only slight variations in texture or grade could be observed among them.

But now?

‘The composition of the scales is distinctly different. Overall, the Chromatic Dragons are larger!’

Kijung, observing a metal dragon flying overhead, was certain of this.

The Chromatic Dragons clearly received some enhancement from being near Tiamat, and it was having a tremendous effect.

Thus, it was predictable what the outcome would be when the nearly equal forces of Metal and Color collided.

Kijung tried to shout, but the Metal Dragons were not fools.

“Do not slow down, partner.”

『Of course. We maintain our charge with unwavering force—』

They had enough variables to turn the situation around.

“I’ll delay them. 〈Headwind〉.”

『〈Ice Blow〉.』

These variables were their partners.

Wide-area debuff skills shot from the hands of Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht.

Though not particularly damaging, the skills cast were strong enough to make the charging Chromatic Dragons stagger.

Their skills disrupted the enemy’s casting and weakened their charge, even momentarily. Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht retreated from the assault formation as soon as they completed their task.

『Curses—these pests—』

The headwind for the Chromatic Dragons became a tailwind for the Metal Dragons.

A white dragon stepped forward to absorb and neutralize Ram Hwajung and Arzenmacht’s skills, but the situation was already proceeding according to the Metal Dragons’ plan.

『Let’s go.』

Bailephus narrowed his wings to minimize air resistance.

Despite starting later, he moved so fast he overtook all the other Metal Dragons, his slender, elongated body resembling a golden spear.

“〈Sacred Light〉.”

Atop Bailephus’s neck, Alexander extended his lance.

It was a ‘real lance,’ a golden spear cutting through the air and tearing through the Chromatic Dragon formation.

───────────────!

『Do you think I’ll let you, Bailephus?』

Then, a gigantic Black Dragon appeared at the forefront of the Chromatic Dragon formation.

『Onyx!』

Having materialized via teleportation, Onyx was positioned at the very front, less than 30 meters from Bailephus, grinning.

Both Bailephus and Alexander could see his smile very clearly.

On top of Onyx’s head, a small girl stood.

『Extend your greetings.』

Onyx spoke.

As the girl standing on the Black Dragon’s head began to float mid-air.

『This is our Queen.』

────────────!!!!

The light vanished.
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“Ah! What is this!”

The terrifying scream of the chimera and the sound of its tentacles striking were clear. However, the battlefield, where nothing could be seen, turned into chaos in an instant.

“Abnormal Status! Is it blindness!?”

“Cure! Healers! Restore! Recovery! Cure! Anything, please— Ugh!”

The chimera’s attacks did not stop.

The manticores also continued their relentless assault without any issues.

Healers used every skill in their arsenal, trying to remedy what they presumed to be a status ailment, but nothing seemed effective.

On the contrary, flaming arrows flew, illuminating parts of the area, and effects from using other skills could still be seen!

It was only then that the users understood the situation.

‘It’s not a status ailment! It just got dark around us!’

Understanding the situation, users hurriedly shouted,

“Light! Bring out some light! Illuminate the surroundings!”

From that point on, irregular flickering started to appear here and there.

It was the same in the area slightly to the north of the central front.

“Do you seek light?”

At the sudden voice, one user at the front line quickly rummaged through his bag.

Darkness had a way of evoking fear.

“Of course! Damn it, even a lamp for now—”

He pulled out a lamp and lit it. In front of him appeared someone resembling a human.


If not for the distinctly Bluebeard on his face, he could have easily been mistaken for a user.

“Is that so? Sorry about that.”

Le in a rugged outfit reached out. Though he had no staff, he was gripping black tendrils with both hands.

Black sparks jumped from his hands, which were holding the tendrils barehanded.

As if slicing tofu with a kitchen knife, he cleaved the user’s upper body cleanly. The user dropped the lamp and died without even a final scream.

“You will never see the light again.”

With those final words, Bluebeard moved on.

To the Demon King’s Fragment, who had never been obsessed with light even when in the eastern part of the New Continent, this kind of darkness was no obstacle.

“Argh—”

“Screeeeaaam!”

“What is it!? What’s—ughh!”

Wherever he passed, screams followed.

Neither in confrontation with the chimera nor with manticores flying towards here, what was happening!

Bluebeard neither expressed any special anger nor stopped his attacks.

He just silently and calmly, as if it were his duty, sliced, slashed, and cut through humans, giants, and wood elves alike.

The skill effects of users and NPCs occasionally burst, but they could not capture Bluebeard’s form.

“Light the fire! Fire!”

“There’s something! There’s something around!”

“Our party’s wiped out! What is this? How did we lose a five-healer party!”

The panicked users gathered near the light, but it could only temporarily avoid the danger.


Bluebeard did not approach the torches and lamps that illuminated the surroundings completely or covered a fairly wide area.

“Where are they.”

With additional sneak attacks in the dark, Le’s eyes emitted a deep blue light as he fought, swaying the black tendrils with both hands.

From the center of the New Continent to the north, Le kept moving up.

Slashing and cutting, he was literally lighting up his eyes to find someone.

Fueled by an unyielding will never to give up!

After cutting down three giants, he swiftly leapt to slice another five giants and was about to move with quick movement.

Thunk.

“Uh?”

Bluebeard’s movement stopped.

He briefly showed a confused expression. However, the one more startled was the user who had managed to halt Bluebeard.

“Suddenly, what—ah? B-Bluebeard!?”

Karelin subconsciously released his grip and stepped back.

He had been running towards the ‘brightest burning light’ the moment darkness spread.

Naturally, that place was the central area, the dragon battleground.

That place, filled with breath attacks and skills, was far brighter than mere user skills.

The mission to stop the Chimera was being managed smoothly by the Daoist Brothers and the giant armored vehicle, so Karelin intended to lend his strength to matters related to Tiamat.

This was a complete coincidence.

While Karelin, moving through the central area of the new continent, clashed at close range with Bluebeard, who was mindlessly slaughtering, Karelin’s ‘Absolute Defense’ activated due to perceiving Bluebeard’s ‘Leap’ as an attack!

“How did Bluebeard end up here—is it fake?”


“You seem to be suffering from some form of exhibitionism. I’ve never seen such a vulgar outfit in my long Demon King’s Fragment life.”

Bluebeard let out a sinister smile as he watched Karelin retreat, but his smile soon faded.

“No, that sort of thing is trivial. You… how did you catch me?”

Bluebeard stared at Karelin with eyes burning blue.

Karelin’s throat quivered.

Despite having a body honed in wrestling, the Demon King’s Fragment before him, smaller than the ‘Giant race’, exuded an overwhelming presence.

‘This pressure… it’s the first time since the game began. This can’t be a fake!’

Whoosh—!

Bluebeard lunged straight at Karelin, attempting to swing the black stem gripped in his hands.

Any attack emerging from the darkness would be immensely powerful, rendering it nearly impossible to dodge.

As long as Bluebeard’s arm didn’t grab Karelin, that is.

“Again?”

“Damn, ugh—! This is real!”

Karelin caught Bluebeard’s arm in a sliver of time he couldn’t even perceive. Forcing Bluebeard to halt his swing, Karelin hurriedly released his grip and stepped back.

He had no choice.

Only twice.

He had reacted to Bluebeard’s attack only twice.

Moreover, both times, he had grabbed Bluebeard’s body, not the ‘weapon’ Bluebeard held, yet his vision was steadily turning reddish-black.

‘My HP is decreasing rapidly.’

Feverishly opening and closing the character window to restore HP was not unusual for those in close-combat roles, a fact Karelin was well aware of.

After just two instances, his vision was nearly halved.

Given that one of those wasn’t even a proper attack by Bluebeard, he guessed he could only withstand one more.

‘One more block, and I’ll be in a critical state.’

Karelin glanced at Le.

Bluebeard now bared his teeth.

Although his eyes weren’t smiling, the sight of his gaping jaws horrified Karelin.

“Finding and tearing apart Ha Leeha can wait. There’s an interesting one here.”

“Ha Leeha?”

“Ha! That’s right! Perverted giant, you know Ha Leeha too? Even better.”

Bluebeard dismissed one of the black stems held in his left hand.

“Where is Ha Leeha now?”

“I don’t know. Even if I did, I wouldn’t tell you.”

“Good. My specialty is getting answers from those who claim they don’t know.”

Bluebeard licked his lips with his tongue.

To Bluebeard, a ranker like Karelin seemed no more than a morsel.

A proud wrestler couldn’t possibly stand idle in such a situation.

Despite the fear of death, Karelin did not back down for that very reason.

“Come at me, you old lunatic.”

“Huhuhu, alright. Though I could say the same about a raving exhibitionist… Enjoy—”

“Attention! Karelin broadcasting!”

As the personal emissary to the president of Shazrashian and a beacon of aspiration for giants unlike Igor, Karelin shouted.

Karelin wasn’t ashamed to utilize the surrounding environment.

“Bluebeard is hereeeee! Everyone concentrate and attack in one go while I hold him! Don’t miss this chance!”

As soon as he revealed his identity and drew attention, he shouted,

“It’s Karelin!”

“Bl-Bluebeard! Is it really Le!?”

“Damn! Does hitting him even once give experience points!?”

In Shazrashian, there wasn’t a single user who ignored Karelin’s cry.

“For someone so cocky, aren’t you being cowardly?”

“Cowardly? You must be mistaken, Le. Have you ever heard the saying, ‘a rat in a jar?'”

Karelin tightened his thigh muscles.

Only about 40 minutes had passed since the battle began.

There were still many chimeras to fight, but it was clear that those coming after would handle them.

If he could die with Bluebeard, the temporary lack of command or loss of power would be more than compensated by the gain.

So, let’s die together.

If they died together, it would be fine.

The moment he captured Le, no skills would be able to save him. He wouldn’t be able to counterattack.

Moreover, the number of giants slowly surrounding Le had already reached dozens. Even if just two of the axes striking from all directions hit his skull, it might shatter the Demon King’s Fragment.

For all of this.

‘I’ll die.’

Karelin had steeled himself for death.

Le was observing Karelin’s determined expression. He didn’t move hastily. It was undoubtedly different from ‘usual’ Le.

Whether he got captured or not, he usually could double the number of surrounding giants in less than a second.

By separating their upper bodies from their lower bodies.

“Tsk, having to get excited dealing with these idiots. Ha Leeha’s absence makes me even angrier. If only I had it….”

Looking at his empty hands without a staff, Le clicked his tongue.

But he didn’t step back.

The moment Bluebeard charged at Karelin, the battle would commence.

The surrounding users kept a reasonable distance from Bluebeard, ready to leap in at any moment.

The darkness still hadn’t dissipated.

With Bluebeard’s appearance, users focused on him, and chaos on the front lines increased.

Then suddenly, there was light.

“Got y—”

“Ah, no! It’s not Bluebeard moving!”

It was a sudden burst of light that made the lamp unnecessary.

Some users, mistaking it for Bluebeard’s movement, stepped forward first.

“See you next time, exhibitionist.”

“Let me catch y—”

Before Karelin could say anything, Bluebeard turned toward the giants who had taken a few steps toward him.

As soon as the tightly-held siege formation wavered, he found a gap and escaped. Passing the giants and slashing occurred almost simultaneously.

“—can’t… catch… you… It’s… fortunate, I suppose.”

Le had vanished.

Karelin sighed as he looked at the spot where Bluebeard had stood, having quickly slipped away.

Even if prepared for death, there was a sense of relief in surviving.

He looked at his palm. Karelin knew about Bluebeard’s previous actions.

‘Until now, very few have exchanged blows with him. And the reason for that is quite simple…’

His unbelievable agility.

No one could keep up with his speed, which was swift enough to toy with users.

But what about himself?

Looking at his tingling palm, one thought crossed his mind.

‘What if I could catch Bluebeard?’

But the thought didn’t last long.

In the now brightly lit battlefield, there was someone who caught everyone’s attention more than anything else.
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“Hey…….”

“Uh, uh, uh! It appeared! It’s here!”

The reason the light had disappeared and the reason it had reappeared were both the same.

“Tia― Tia―”

“It’s Tiamat! Tiamat!”

A colossal being, so enormous that even users on the northern battlefield could see it as if it were right in front of them.

The queen of the chromatic dragons, Tiamat, was hovering in the central part of the New Continent.

At the end of a much more intense struggle than last time, the six mouths on its six heads were groaning in their own ways.

Most users did not notice such differences.

This was also true for most users in the central part of the New Continent.

However, to a few users who had experienced Tiamat last time and who were directly below Tiamat, it was quite clear.

“Tiamat is…….”

“In pain?”

Why on earth had there arisen a darkness capable of absorbing all the light from the battlefield?

Chromatic dragons were in a state where they could completely share Tiamat’s pain, so why now was she suffering again?

No one clearly understood it.

Except for the very one who had created the darkness.

Even Onyx, who had brought Tiamat to the battlefield, was bewildered, which was the proof.

* * *


『My, my queen― Why―』

───────────────!

『―Grrk!』

Onyx had to back away, flapping his wings.

Tiamat’s thrashing was so intense that even her subordinate, the chromatic dragons, could not get close.

It was not just mere thrashing. The massive amount of mana energy shooting out unpredictably every time ‘she’ moved was something.

It couldn’t be called magic, nor could it be seen as a skill. However, each blast’s destructive power equaled that of a formidable dragon’s breath attack.

That power was flying towards various fronts where users and chimeras were fighting, exploding without distinguishing friend or foe.

Even the metal dragons, who had fought by exchanging countless skills and breaths during the moments of darkness, sensed their bewilderment.

『What is happening, Onyx!』

Bailephus asked as he flew rapidly.

Onyx quickly evaded the white fireball launched by the gold dragon. He didn’t answer.

“When Tiamat advances, isn’t it when all her afflictions are resolved…? Wasn’t that the case?”

『If it was the Lord’s words, it must be true. But then why…….』

Why was she acting more wildly than her last appearance?

They couldn’t answer. Alexander and Bailephus deflected the skills fired by other chromatic dragons as they flew around Tiamat.

Tiamat was so enormous that from their flying position, they could hardly see her head and tail.

“We need to see her head, partner.”

『I agree. To understand her condition as stated in the humans’ records―』

*Shwoo――!*


Bailephus accelerated.

『Let’s confirm. Everyone, minimize confrontations with the chromatic dragons! Until Tiamat’s condition is grasped, hold your positions and refrain from excessive engagement!』

Even amidst this, the top-grade ‘elder’ of the metal dragons took command.

Approaching the dangerous factor personally while protecting his subordinates was one of the reasons Bailephus was a respected dragon.

“We need to report this.”

『Blaugrunn has already informed the Lord.』

“I see. So that means Ha Leeha is also observing Tiamat?”

『Indeed.』

Alexander briefly observed the ground.

Users, NPCs, and chimeras, all mingled and tangled to the point where distinction was impossible.

‘What method have you found, Ha Leeha?’

Is there a way to kill Tiamat?

Thinking of Leeha, Alexander then shook his head once again.

If there was no special contact from Leeha, it obviously meant he had his own methods.

“We will execute our justice.”

『Of course.』

Bailephus and Alexander flew toward Tiamat’s heads.

As Tiamat had appeared at a point close to the center of the front lines, the users on the ground below still felt a sense of darkness.

This was because Tiamat’s massive body completely blocked out the sun.

“How on earth are we supposed to handle that!?”


Jin Gonggong, transformed into a druid, shouted as he rammed a chimera with his body.

Biyemi, in the meantime, quickly collected the toxins and acids spewing from the chimera into his categorized containers, all while-nimbly dodging their attacks.

“Kikik, let’s not worry about that. Tiamat wasn’t made for ordinary users to hunt anyway.”

“What? What do you mean?”

“We can’t even deal any damage in the first place, so what can we do? Kikik. Our goal is to deal with the endless chimeras and undead rather than just one Tiamat.”

“Biyemi is right. Even if we can’t fight Tiamat, our purpose is clear!”

Tale agreed with Biyemi’s words as he swung his fire sword.

The chimera’s tentacles recoiled in surprise, but Tale was already at its face, driving his sword deep into the chimera’s body.

“Dealing with the ground forces and stopping the invasion!”

“Kikik, correct. The enemy isn’t just Tiamat. There are also the dragons and Le.”

“Kyyaaaah—!”

“Hyaaaap!”

Biyemi was momentarily startled by a chimera charging at him, causing him to stumble. But no attacks reached him. Kijung had stepped in, parrying the chimera’s tentacles with his shield and launching a counterattack.

“Biyemi! Are you okay?”

“Kikik, I’m fine. Anyway, our goal is… this person.”

Biyemi then pointed to Kijung.

“Huh? Me?”

“Tiamat and Le. There’s still one more, right? The ‘Holy Knight’.”

“Oh.”

Ghibrid.

Even if their front line wasn’t the largest, the Demon King’s Fragment occupied a significant portion. So far, the primary cause of user deaths had been the chimeras and manticores.

If they couldn’t eliminate the “Chimera Nest” producing the chimeras and manticores, this front line might continue indefinitely.

“But we can’t get there. We couldn’t even break through last time, and we can’t pinpoint the exact location.”

Kijung shook his head while dealing with the chimeras.

The current situation was completely different from when the exact location had been identified on Rubini’s map.

“Should I go with you?”

“I know Bobae is reliable! But no, the role you’re playing here is too important.”

If the top-ranking archer left, the support for the frontline would suffer significantly.

Bobae understood this too and just smiled at Kijung’s words.

“Kikik, if he hadn’t said Bobae is reliable, he would’ve been scolded again, huh?”

“Did you just say everything, Biyemi-ssi!?”

Bobae snapped at Biyemi’s teasing.

She had indeed appreciated Kijung’s words and stayed silent, so she felt even more flustered.

Continuing to lead the Paladin forces and other elite groups, Kijung let out a small sigh.

“Unless someone accompanies me.”

He needed more strength.

Rubini would still be working hard to pinpoint the location of the Demon King’s Fragments.

Once their locations were completely revealed, if he had someone to accompany him…

There would be no obstacles in breaking through the chimeras and charging toward Ghibrid.

“Lee Jiwon!”

Kijung recalled the top-ranked player who had once fought alongside Ghibrid and Le. Where could he be at this moment?

However, there was no trace of Lee Jiwon anywhere to be seen.

“Alright! Let’s deal with the chimeras first! The path will definitely open up!”

“Ki, kikit— If we survive there… won’t we?”

“What?”

Kijung tried to clear his mind and refocus on the battle. It was at that moment that Biyemi, who was fully engrossed in the fight, pointed his finger towards the sky.

“Kijung!”

“The head of Tiamat?!”

Bobae and Tale were also looking in that direction.

They couldn’t see the head, but they had enough evidence to infer it was the head area.

At one end of Tiamat’s massive and elongated body, various colors of light were gathering.

“This is… that breath attack from before!”

“It’s alright! If it’s coming like this— we’re actually the safest right now!”

Kijung encouraged the panicking Jin Gonggong. Tale quickly grasped his meaning.

“Indeed. Being ‘right under’ Tiamat means there’s no fear of the breath attack.”

The area where they currently were positioned was Tiamat’s belly.

The breath attack would move in the direction the head was facing, so weren’t they in the safest place?

“Yes! We should focus on our battle!— Argh!”

“Eek! What is that sound?!”

Just as Kijung and Tale were about to continue their fight against the chimeras and manticores, a deafening roar echoed throughout the battlefield that all users and NPCs could hear.

It was more like a scream than a roar.

As the utterly chilling scream of a woman sent shivers down the users’ spines, a distinctly audible word could be heard.

Baile——phus——!

The rough male voice, entirely discordant with the female scream, broke off intermittently but clearly shouted the word.

“Bailephus? Did someone just say Bailephus?”

Leeha was surveying Tiamat’s head area through his scope.

A golden dragon flying near the absurdly massive face could only be Bailephus and Alexander.

But who was shouting Bailephus’ name?

One of the six thrashing heads and bodies of Tiamat?!

‘No, how— could it be!?’

A shiver ran down Leeha’s spine. He recognized that voice.

“Kuzgunak’sh!”

Why could Kuzgunak’sh’s voice be heard separately from Tiamat?

As Leeha’s mind made the connection, a hypothesis emerged.

‘Kuzgunak’sh’s head— Kijung crushed it. But even then, Tiamat could be created. And Bahamut’s advice that Tiamat is ‘imperfect’! This means!’

Didn’t the Demon King’s Fragments use Kuzgunak’sh’s head to break Tiamat’s seal?

Even opting to use the completely crushed head…

“They made it into a chimera… and attached it.”

Kyaaaaaa──────!

Kieeeeck─────────!

One of Tiamat’s six heads flared up intensely.

As the intensity of the flare grew, the breaths accumulating in the other five heads evaporated and disappeared.

Only one remained.

Out of the wide-open eyes of one head, a breath attack remained.

Baile——ph——-us!

One of Tiamat’s six heads, the head that had become the chimera, Kuzgunak’sh’s head, flared up and spewed a breath attack.

In the direction the breath was spewing, a golden dragon was rapidly descending.
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The speed of the breath and Bailephus’s evading speed were instantly calculated in Leeha’s mind.

“No, it’s too late!”

It was impossible to avoid.

“Use your skill! Evade with that combination skill!”

Just as Leeha was about to send a whisper to Alexander, a blinding radiance erupted near Bailephus.

─────────────…….

“Ugh?!”

Leeha also momentarily winced from the brightness, but he quickly adapted. He noticed one of the emerging figures amidst the light.

“Ha Leeha-nim! I have brought the Lord!”

“Blaugrunn-ssi! Perfect timing!”

Blaugrunn, who was responsible for reporting to Bahamut and bringing him, performed his role splendidly, and at the perfect moment!

Bahamut nodded at Bailephus and immediately spewed his breath.

Bahamut’s breath soared towards Tiamat’s. Leeha saw Bailephus frantically layering multiple shields as he hurriedly retreated.

“〈Electric Barrier〉!”

Blaugrunn also hastily cast a shield, protecting both himself and Leeha.

At that moment, the breaths collided.

“Uh…?”

Rather than a collision, it appeared to be a merging process.

The breaths from their mouths stretched and converged into a single point.


No more breaths were being emitted from both Bahamut and Tiamat, and a single point continued to sparkle at the intersection of their breaths. Leeha’s observation was not incorrect.

However, it was more accurate to say that due to the immense power of both, even the repulsion force couldn’t manifest yet.

When all that energy reached its critical point, the breaths repelled each other.

To Leeha, it appeared as just a flicker of light, but on the ground where the breaths collided, a violent upheaval was occurring.

The shockwave from the repelling breaths was enough to alter the terrain.

Chimeras, users, and NPCs, who were unprepared, vanished as if erased by an eraser. They didn’t just turn gray or die; they literally ‘evaporated’.

Zzzz—!

That shockwave reached where Leeha was.

Only after Blaugrunn’s barrier reacted intensely, did the sound finally arrive.

BOOOOOM────────!

“It’s more than 4 kilometers away, yet the shockwave reached here!”

Leeha was astounded.

The intimidation of facing Tiamat in real life was no joke.

Leeha doubted whether Bahamut could handle that, but at least it was confirmed that he could block ‘one head’s’ breath.

“Indeed, it’s Lord’s breath! Since he can emit breaths as much as he wants, if he bombards Tiamat indiscriminately—.”

“No, no! That’s just a last resort! If he emits breaths endlessly, the humans will all burn to death!”

However, the fact that breaths could block other breaths couldn’t be interpreted too optimistically.

Including the chimeras, how many innocent lives would be caught in the crossfire between these two colossal forces?

‘Above all, Tiamat’s breath…’

It was just one ray. The five other heads were only breathing.


If all six heads in the video spewed breath simultaneously, could Bahamut handle it?

“No, we must block it. Somehow… At least the breath must be blocked.”

This thought was not only held by Leeha.

The frontline, which had been holding its ground against the chimera until just moments ago, began to slowly and steadily retreat.

The users, distracted by Tiamat, had their morale broken, or they started fleeing from him, causing the frontlines to gradually collapse. This situation was the result of a single breath attack from one of Tiamat’s six heads, not a combined blast.

* * *

“Run awaaaaaay—!”

“S-save me! This crazy war was never supposed to happen in the first place!”

“Damn it, weren’t those chimera bastards just pretending to fall back?!”

“We can’t even teleport here because it’s the ‘East’!”

While the users in the rear could at least try to escape, those at the front couldn’t teleport or retreat. Unless the defensive line collapsed entirely, it was nearly impossible for a single individual to go against it.

At that moment, the frontline was starting to crack as if a dam was fissuring, but it hadn’t yet burst open with a gaping hole.

Alexander furrowed his brow as he observed the chaos on the ground. However, he couldn’t blame them entirely. Even he had barely managed to retreat from the shockwave, sweating profusely.

“Tiamat’s breath being unleashed is a problem, but…”

『The problem is also the Lord trying to block it with another breath.』

“If we can’t completely block that breath…”

Defeat.

The word flashed across Alexander’s mind.

‘It would be good if I could help the frontline even momentarily, but it’s impossible.’

Why were the users terrified? It was because of Tiamat’s overwhelming power. And that was due to the indirect experience of just one encounter.


Alexander himself had to face Tiamat directly with Bailephus. Naturally, he had not the slightest capability to worry about the ground users.

『Hmm—!』

Bahamut soared into the air, dodging Tiamat’s rampant attacks. Tiamat’s heads followed the platinum dragon.

Bailephus also turned back towards the sky, chasing after Bahamut.

Five heads were following Bahamut’s movements.

However, the movement of one of the heads was different.

Bailephus—!

One hideous face had locked onto Bailephus chasing behind Bahamut. Bailephus glanced back to see its face.

『Partner, it seems what we should aim for is Kuzgunak’sh’s consciousness.』

“Hmm. That must be Tiamat’s flaw.”

『Even in rest, it seeks me out. The last remnant of Kuzgunak’sh’s consciousness is pure rage towards me.』

“No. It might not be just that, friend.”

『What do you mean, Alexander?』

“Kuzgunak’sh fought you out of desire only once when alive. After death, its body was used as an undead, and now its head is grafted onto a chimera. The last thought of its consciousness might be… a plea for someone to end its wretchedly exploited life.”

『You mean it’s crying out for someone to stop it from being agonized and enslaved by Le… calling to me?』

“Yes.”

Even though metal and chromatic dragons inherently had different inclinations, the pride placed upon the broader dragon race was something Alexander didn’t wish to trample on. He understood well about their peculiar rival relationship.

Kuzgunak’sh sought complete and eternal death, that solace. Then, who would be the target?

It seemed obvious to Alexander that he would recall his fiercest rival, the one he hated most and angered him the most—the metal dragon.

『”Poor Kuzgunak’sh fellow… unable to trust even his own kind, the Chromatic Clan, he turned to me…”』

The dragon’s brow furrowed momentarily. But the reflection ended there.

As Tiamat’s gigantic body twitched, the surrounding clouds were shredded to pieces.

Fortunately, that overwhelming figure did not come with speed.

However, the mere fact that it was approaching was already a significant pressure for Bailephus, Bahamut, and Alexander.

『”Alexander. Bailephus.”』

『”Yes, my lord.”』

『”Summon the clan. I’ll handle Tiamat for a while.”』

Bahamut circled, attempting to restrain Tiamat’s movements for a moment.

Can they confront Tiamat by combining all the power of the Metal Dragons? However, that too was uncertain.

Just as Bahamut had Metal Dragons, Tiamat had Chromatic Dragons.

『”We can’t let this go on.”』

Onyx, leading the Chromatic Dragons, hovered near Tiamat’s head, blasting breaths and magic.

『”… Onyx. Foolish friend, can’t you see Tiamat’s current state? Do you think you can handle the entangled thoughts of Kuzgunak’sh while she’s in this incomplete state?”』

Bahamut said while evading their spells.

Bailephus and Alexander began gathering the nearby Metal Dragons and headed towards Bahamut.

Although there were some incapacitated dragons, there were still over 20 dragons in each faction.

『”This is none of your concern. Our queen has awakened… We only need to annihilate you.”』

Onyx shouted with utmost confidence.

Bahamut, shaking his head, reproached Onyx.

『”I know you share Tiamat’s pain. And I also know that it is nearing failure. Can you keep sharing her pain while fighting me? The moment you fail to share the pain—Kuzgunak’sh’s thoughts and Tiamat’s mind will intertwine, causing her to go berserk.”』

Bahamut was a unique entity, the only one who could know this, equal to Tiamat! The Chromatic Dragons visibly flustered at Bahamut’s words.

『”Is that… is that really possible, elder?”』

『”Though the queen seemed distressed at times—it was just a fleeting issue, wasn’t it?”』

『”Didn’t the Elder say he could fully handle Kuzgunak’sh’s thoughts?”』

Onyx silently turned around.

『”Whose words do you trust, mine or Bahamut’s? I will risk my life to share the queen’s pain. You focus on wiping out Bahamut and his Metal Clan with the queen.”』

『”Nonsense! Don’t you know this is not something you can do alone? Are you really trying to make Tiamat go berserk—… I see. That was your goal!”』

Bahamut’s eyes widened in realization.

The other dragons had not reached Bahamut’s level of suspicion yet.

As Bahamut tried to speak again, Tiamat had already closed a significant distance.

『”Everyone, attack with the queen.”』

Onyx commanded and quickly retreated behind Tiamat.

『”Attack! Target Tiamat! Prevent her head from unleashing her breath!”』

Bahamut also ordered the Metal Dragons and started to move.

The dragons’ conversation in the sky did not reach the ground. Without Alexander, no one could have comprehended this situation.

Leeha was listening to all the ongoing conversations through Alexander.

—It was that! Onyx is trying to kill Bahamut using Tiamat!

—What then? What if Tiamat goes berserk?

Alexander asked Leeha.

Leeha, hearing that, felt a different kind of excitement and anticipation.
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—That madman!

—Ha Leeha! Why are you suddenly cursing?

—That bastard! That guy! Kha-hah, I knew it! He wasn’t the type to act thoughtlessly. He knew about Onyx! What kind of dragon Onyx is!

—What are you talking about? I don’t understand.

—Lark! That’s the reason Lark was with Onyx!

In Leeha’s mind, it was as if he could hear Lark’s voice.

Lark might have been discovered by Onyx while hunting down the chromatic dragons.

‘No, no. Since he belonged to Minis, he would have known about Onyx’s existence all along. He must’ve known that Onyx was the leader of the chromatic dragons.’

Perhaps he even went to ‘kill’ Onyx.

But no fight ensued. How did they end up talking?

‘He recognized the sword! Onyx, who even Bahamut acknowledged, would definitely recognize that sword!’

A human wielding a sword capable of killing Tiamat.

Onyx must have taken an interest in Lark. And Lark, through their conversation, must have realized,

‘That Onyx was a dragon worth using! That sharp-minded bastard couldn’t have missed that— and then!’

『Hmm, then how about using the incomplete Tiamat to kill Bahamut? Even if incomplete, it must have power.

But wouldn’t the Queen still be alive?

Oh-ho! A dragon who knows what this sword is speaking like that. We’ll use Tiamat to kill Bahamut, and then I’ll kill Tiamat.

Do you think a puny creature like you can kill the Queen?

Haha! Onyx, you don’t have to put on that act. You’re the one who will set the stage for me to kill ‘the Queen’. You want it too, don’t you? Then help me. I’ll make you the king of all dragons.』


Lark’s cunning words must have precisely struck at Onyx’s desires.

And by making a deal with Onyx, Lark easily infiltrated the chromatic dragons.

In order to kill Tiamat!

But would Lark ever actually let Bahamut be killed?

If that happened, Lark would become an irredeemable traitor.

Even if it wasn’t Lark’s intention, the major figures related to the metal dragons would forever resent Lark.

Lark must have considered this.

‘So that’s why… he was with Nara.’

Being with Shin Nara. That was Lark’s ‘insurance’.

『I truly didn’t betray anyone!

If I had, would Dame Shin really be with me!?

There would have been no way to safely get close to Tiamat without this method!

While I was working here, you should have been ensuring that Bahamut didn’t die! You knew what I was going to do, and yet you just watched!?』

Although irritated, Lark’s logical voice again echoed in Leeha’s mind. He now understood why Lark had blocked whispers. But Leeha knew.

Lark wanted someone to ‘understand and trust his plan and even come up with countermeasures.’

And who was capable of that?

It was him.

“Blaugrunn!”

“Yes, yes!”

“Please inform the Lord.”


Leeha had left a message for Blaugrunn.

“If that is Lark’s plan, then we must utilize it from now on.”

『”Indeed… Understood! I will head there immediately!”』

“You don’t need to come! Just relay the message―and make sure, Blaugrunn, that you stay with the Metal Dragons, ensuring you do not get hurt! Since the Lord has revealed himself, Bluebeard and Ghibrid are likely not going to remain idle!”

『”But what about you, Ha Leeha!?”』

Blaugrunn, who had been flying, stopped moving and asked.

Leeha did not respond, wearing a blank expression. Blaugrunn tilted his head, puzzled by Leeha’s demeanor.

『”Ha Leeha…?”』

At that moment, a lilac light flashed beside Leeha.

Blaugrunn, who was ready to cast a lightning spell and fire, soon recognized the figures that appeared around Leeha.

『”You all are―.”』

“You’re late! When I call, you should come immediately!”

Leeha shouted at the people who had appeared around him. However, they ignored Leeha’s anger.

“… Is that something you should say when you’ve just sent a whisper?”

It was Rapidfire Kidd.

“Ugh! What is this? You said you had a place set up, but it’s this miserable?”

It was Pierce Luger.

“Who’s the one who told us to wait until a plan was set and now gets angry?”

It was Prea, the White-Eyed Spiritualist.

Leeha laughed bitterly at the three who weren’t backing down.


“I had to call you sooner because if we’re any later, there will be a problematic gap in the front line. We couldn’t just wait for the perfect timing.”

Leeha had gathered them all.

By now, the shared information was already known.

In light of the true intentions of Lark that they had figured out, what would be the best strategy? Leeha had just thought of a plan based on those realizations and communicated it to them.

Upon hearing Leeha’s plan, Kidd pulled down his hat.

“Is it even possible with that? You of all people should know the firepower calculations show it’s insufficient. Are you pushing through regardless because… you have a hidden card you haven’t mentioned yet?”

Before Leeha could even respond to Kidd’s accurate point, Luger clamped his cobalt-blue python close to his side and laughed.

“Ha! Aren’t you the guy who formed the Three Musketeers to carry out some scheme? It’s obvious you have some other idea. I will just show my strength.”

“Ha Leeha and I working together, isn’t that interesting? And it’s fun to use a new power as soon as you get it!”

Prea sparkled with excitement as if she were going on a picnic.

Seeing Prea like that, Leeha sighed.

“Hah, I wonder how fun it’ll be… We’ll soon find out.”

In that brief silence, Leeha pulled back the bolt.

Click, a rough metallic sound echoed.

“Let’s begin hunting Tiamat.”

The four of them moved simultaneously.

* * *

『Onyx! Must you carry out this doomsday assault after all!』

『Isn’t that what you wanted, Bahamut?』

Bahamut shouted, trying to launch a breath attack at Onyx, but capturing the timing was not easy.

Onyx was already flying toward the back of Tiamat, and numerous chromatic dragons were gathered in front of it.

『Coward!』

『Lord!』

While Bahamut hesitated momentarily, Blaugrunn approached him.

Blaugrunn conversed with Bahamut briefly before both of them took flight together. The destination was where Bailephus and Alexander were located.

The first dragon partner and partner dragon were engaged in an intense battle with the chromatic dragons.

Of course, they weren’t the only ones.

As the number of metal dragons assisting Bailephus increased, the number of chromatic dragons rampaging under the influence of Tiamat’s aura also grew.

Users watching the dragon clashes from the ground felt an overwhelming sense of awe.

“Wow… incredible.”

“This alone is worth more than this month’s subscription fee!”

The ice breath of the white dragon was countered by the fire breath of the gold dragon, the electric breath of the bronze dragon was scattered in the air by the blue dragon’s lightning-guidance magic, and the breath of the yellow dragon, which included slow and sustained damage, was offset by the almost similar breath of the copper dragon.

“Are metal ancients really losing to color adults!?”

“That must be the power of Tiamat! This is insane—waaaah!”

The realistic spectacle was a movie-like experience so vivid that fragments from breath collisions and stray skills resulted in casualties among the players.

However, the amazement of ordinary users was nothing compared to that of the mage-class users.

“Is this even a scene that can only come from a dream…?”

“What skill did the red dragon and gold dragon just use on each other?”

“Over there, looks like Hell Fire! Isn’t it casting Hell Fire? That color of mana particles—ah… it’s been canceled.”

“No way! They comboed Chain Lightning with 24 Lightning Bolts in one move! Is that even possible!? The lightning forms a chain with following bolts!”

The high-grade magic wielded by the dragons, the nature of the skills, and their functions!

To mage-class users, who could eventually learn such spells, the dragon battles were like theses or analytical, research materials.

There were even users so mesmerized by dragon combat that they recorded it while chimera approached.

Given that ordinary dragon battles were already like this, it was obvious that many users focused on Tiamat and Bahamut. Their eyes widened in a flash as they watched these cosmic beings.

“Hey! The mouth! Tiamat’s mouth!”

“She’s going to breathe again, her breath attack—she’s doing it again!”

From the six enormous writhing heads, different colored mana particles began to gather again.

Users knew very well the catastrophic impact if Tiamat breathed out those rays again, especially if all six beams shot simultaneously.

The tanks facing the chimeras or the healers protecting them, all users within the potential breath attack range, panicked and began to flee.

The fear corresponded to a dam progressively cracking until a gaping hole appeared.

“Don’t run! The frontlines will collapse!”

“Hold your ground! We have to fight! If we retreat, the chimeras will swarm, and our allies will be surrounded!”

While some users tried to plug the cracks in the dam with their fingers, they couldn’t prevent the wall from crumbling.

Tiamat’s heads were facing toward the southern sector of the New Continent.

If either the northern or southern frontlines, regarded midpoint-wise as the left and right wings, collapsed, the main base could be attacked from the rear, and in the worst-case scenario, they could end up surrounded without the ability to retreat.

“Then what should we do! If that—if that mouth spews breath, we’re all dead anyways!”

“Leave that mouth to me!”

“Why does her head have to face south! It would’ve been better if it were her tail!”

Despite feeling their lives threatened, some were already fleeing without looking back.

Eventually, someone had to step up.

A logical, rational, and realistic leader. A charismatic figure who could remind everyone that standing firm and fighting was the only route to survival.

『Idiots! You just need to stop her from breathing, right? Do you think you can outrun Tiamat’s breath if you run away?』

Even amidst the noisy battlefield, a woman’s voice pierced through clearly using a loudspeaker scroll.

“Ram… Hwayeon!?”

“What? Isn’t Ram Hwayeon an administrative officer? Why is she on the battlefield—.”
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“Damn it, get out of the way! What can you do even if you join us? You haven’t even reached level 200—.”

『”That’s right! I can’t do it! But if you all combine your strength, you can!”』

As Ram Hwayeon raised her hand, a purple light flashed endlessly on the hill.

『”With these people!”』

Gigantic gates were established on the hill overlooking the central front lines of the New Continent.

They were five gates even larger than the warp gate in the capital of Fibiel!

The promotion of war and the installation of warp gates that Ram Hwayeon and the Hwahung Guild had been preparing for a long time were finally accomplished.

“Don’t block the way, forward! Keep ranks of 300 steady!”

“First row, sit! Second row, on your knees! Third row, stand! And—.”

“Ready arrows!”

The first to appear were three wood elves.

As they immediately sprang forward, those shouting were recognized by the users.

“The Scandinavian Trio!”

“Sveor, Biyom, Huivada!”

And behind them, users and NPC wood elves poured out endlessly!

These three top-rank wood elves, other than Prea, led their kind with fervor.

As a race of order and peace, they maintained perfect ranks with calm demeanor despite being thrust into an unfamiliar and chaotic battlefield.

Ram Hwayeon whistled as she watched the state of the wood elves.

Even in the noisy and chaotic battlefield, the high-pitched whistle spread far and wide.


A group on a completely different front from the wood elves responded to the whistle.

“Alright, that’s the signal! Everyone, change targets!”

“Focus on Tiamat! We must prevent Tiamat from firing its breath attack!”

“I’ll set every bullet on fire! Prepare to fire! Match the humans’ arrows!”

The Red Goat!

The paleo also began to move at the right time.

A single faction’s long-range attacks would be insufficient. They judged that at least the concentrated firepower of two or more factions was necessary to cancel Tiamat’s breath cast.

And now, that judgment was about to be realized.

“Fire!”

“Fiiiiire!”

The wood elves’ arrows filled part of the space.

Three lines simultaneously fired arrows, and as soon as they withdrew, another three lines behind them released their arrows!

Each volley consisted of roughly 900 arrows, and in less than five seconds, another volley, and another, and another flew.

Seeing the black arrows filling the sky, the Paleos also pulled their triggers.

“Fire until the barrels melt!”

“For the honor of the bonobo Paleos! We must hit Tiamat!”

───────────────!

On one side, the wood elves’ arrows clouded vision, and on the other, the paleo’s bolt-action gunfire deafened hearing.

It was the perfect battlefield music to rally the retreating users.

“We, we too!”


“Yeah, damn it, where else can we run to? Use any skill or whatever! Just fire!”

The retreating users turned back.

And they started launching skills straight at Tiamat.

Countless long-range physical attacks and skills were directed at Tiamat. The massive barrage was enough to make the chromatic dragons circling around Tiamat retreat hurriedly.

─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─…….

However, none of those attacks reached Tiamat safely.

“A shield…?!”

“That’s cheating! How can that big thing also use magic?”

“It must already have dragon scale defense, but how can we kill it if it has a shield too?”

“The shield will break! There isn’t a shield that can’t be broken! Even if we can’t break through, our attacks are distracting the Colored Dragons, aren’t they!? If we can do just that—”

Before Ram Hwayeon could even finish her sentence, Bahamut and the other Metal Dragons launched breaths and magic attacks.

The spells directed at Tiamat’s main body crashed into the shield, producing a tremendous roar and effects.

“We have the Metal Dragons with us!”

“I never thought an arrow would pierce it anyway. Everyone, reload! I’ll assist with range buffs! 『Blessing of Star Light』.”

“We’re focusing on ice attributes.

『Frozen Arrow』.”

“Spit, if arrows don’t work, can’t I just throw an axe? 『Boomerang Axe』!”

Encouraged by Ram Hwayeon, the synchronized movements of the Metal Dragons, and the skills of the Wood Elves, the users regained their fighting spirit.

Most importantly, the aura of the breath gathering in Tiamat’s mouth seemed to be gradually weakening, which was the biggest reason for their newfound determination.

Until the Colored Dragons interfered, the Metal Dragons, under Bailephus’s command, relentlessly attacked Tiamat’s main body. Although the shield was holding, Tiamat couldn’t comfortably prepare its breath.


But should they flee now? From this very spot?

The users were not that foolish. The renewed vigor of the frontline was a testimony to this.

“I’m joining in! Even if I die, I should at least land one shot before I go!”

“Yeah! We came here for contributions, didn’t we?”

“Damn! If I want even 1 XP, I’ll just have to shoot now!”

Seeing the users united in action, Ram Hwayeon sighed in relief.

—Am I doing it right this way…?

—You did well, Hwayeon! For now, that’s enough. We need to lure out the ones who haven’t appeared yet. Keep focusing on attacking Tiamat thoroughly. If you keep at it…

When Leeha called her name, her face flushed red again.

The fierce warrior who had been scolding thousands of users just moments ago was nowhere to be seen.

“Attack! Attack—”

“The Manticores are coming this way! They’re especially swarming our side!”

The Chimera that were evenly distributed began to attempt a breakthrough at a single point.

It was the area where the Wood Elves and paleo were.

What did that signify?

It meant they were willing to take significant damage for Tiamat. In other words, the current attack was effective on Tiamat.

When Ram Hwayeon was contemplating new troop movements for defense,

Whoooa────!

A pillar of flame suddenly erupted from the center of the battlefield!

Leeha swallowed dryly and quickly whispered.

—Rubini-nim. Pyro has emerged.

—I-I see it too. That flame pillar is… much more powerful than before.

—It’s daylight now, so vampires should be restricted…

Leeha hesitated a moment before adding,

—Well, maybe Chiyou figured something out. Anyway, Pyro isn’t the focus right now. Chiyou must be here too, so please work on pinpointing her location.

—Understood. What about Ghibrid then…

—I’ll handle that. I’ve already prepared measures to draw out those who have infiltrated the battlefield.

After finishing the whisper to Rubini, Leeha turned to his side. A noticeably different-looking Luger briefly stammered.

“Wh-What are you looking at? You think I put this on because I wanted to flaunt an MTick set?”

Luger, wearing the wispy, lightweight clothes and wielding a massive cannon, intended as armor to increase MP recovery speed and the amount of recovered MP.

The current appearance of Luger, unlike his usual soldier-like demeanor, was that of a mage.

“Hehe, I know. That ridiculous skill probably consumes an enormous amount of MP.”

“Quiet. I need to concentrate, so shut up. 〈Acht-Acht〉.”

Luger immediately used the skill, and Leeha was once again amazed.

It was surprising enough that he had noticed the exact timing to shoot, but he also seemed to know where to aim.

“Indeed. I must admit, your sense is impeccable. You even know where to shoot, huh?”

Tiamat?

Now was not the time to tackle that.

To make the players’ front lines smoother and utilize them to find Ghibrid, Bluebeard, and further on, Chiyou and the 《Arcane Sniper》?

“Blow away the leftovers like last time.”

Leeha pointed to the sky where the Manticores were gathering.

Leeha had not forgotten the scene where Luger used a skill to annihilate Chiyou’s horde of bats.

“Heheh… Right, I got the idea that day. The best way to blow away all the ‘leftovers’ using my skill.”

“Huh?”

“You fool, didn’t you realize that even after seeing it?”

“Oh, th-that!? The thing from the Bottleneck’s Smithy―.”

The item among Luger’s two shells that was so riddled with holes it was unrecognizable. Luger inserted it into the muzzle of the cobalt-blue python.

Mana, turning a darker blue than usual, elongated in appearance. Prea watched in astonishment from beside him.

“What is that? It’s amazing!”

However, Leeha did not answer Prea’s question.

Was that crudely designed shell meant to be used with Luger’s new skill, the railgun-like magnetic launch cannon?

Luger chuckled as he saw Leeha’s eyes widen.

“When I blew away Chiyou’s minions, that was definitely a ‘shockwave.’ Can you understand with this much of a hint?”

“Shockwave―.”

“Wind! It’s a device for spitting out wind.”

“You’re indeed quicker than Ha Leeha. Yes! Instead of minimizing air resistance, it actually absorbs air from the front end and expels it through four holes on the side―.”

“Wow!? Th-that’s why it’s so bizarre―.”

“Ha ha ha! Don’t faint from surprise!”

Luger’s muzzle did not waver an inch.

Leeha finally realized the purpose of one of Luger’s shells. Considering it similar to a trumpet was a fairly logical guess.

After all, a trumpet also converts wind into sound. But in this case, it wasn’t converting it into sound.

‘There’s no need to add aerodynamic properties to a railgun flying at such a ridiculous speed! Especially when the shockwave released by the shell can kill the small fry it’s aimed at―.’

It draws in air and further strengthens itself!

In reality, using such an abnormal shell wouldn’t make sense.

Exchanging kinetic energy for the energy expelled around would greatly affect its lethality.

But he was Luger.

A hunter with the highest level of scent and instinct among Middle Earth’s users.

Even if he could inflict just one more damage point than the total HP of the prey?

The monster would die either way.

“Magnetic Field Cannon.”

Luger demonstrated the answer.

The recoil was so overwhelming that it made Luger roll back twice, the roar louder than Tiamat’s, and the deafening noise as the shell flew through the air.

When everything settled, nothing was left in the sky where over forty Manticores had been flying.

Only shredded pieces of meat were scattered around.

The shockwave blew Kidd’s hat off, and dirt and sand covered Leeha’s face, but the two couldn’t react immediately.

“… Are you crazy, Luger?”

“Indeed, this will definitely open Ghibrid’s lid wide.”

These were the first words they managed to utter once they’d finally regained some strength.
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“What in the world!?”

Kijung found his legs nearly paralyzed from the tremendous noise. Even with the chimera rampaging in front of him, the sound was startling enough that he had to turn his head to see what happened.

Even more astonishing was the fact that the chimera, which was poised to attack Kijung, seemed momentarily disoriented by the noise.

While hurriedly dealing with the chimera, Kijung shouted, “W-what kind of noise is that?! What was that sound just now?”

“I don’t know, Kay. But it doesn’t seem like Tiamat’s roar!”

Tale couldn’t hide his bewilderment.

One of Luger’s newly developed projectiles produced a noise comparable to Tiamat’s roar. The combination of the shockwave and sonic boom created by the projectile was incredibly effective.

“Incredible.”

“Bobae, do you see anything? What’s happening?”

“The manticores have disappeared!”

Bobae had been releasing arrows towards the upper front indiscriminately. The sheer number of enemies made it unnecessary to aim at any particular chimera, but even she had been so startled by the sound that it absorbed all her attention.

“What?”

“The manticores are gone! Over there… there were definitely more than 35 manticores! What happened?”

Looking towards Kijung, Bobae seemed bewildered.

Kijung, who had been speaking intermittently, suddenly broke into a broad smile.

“Ha-ha-ha! I knew it! He’s not one to stay idle!”

“Kay?”

“It’s Leeha-hyung! Leeha-hyung―”

“Are you saying Ha Leeha did this? That’s impossible! Ha Leeha’s weapon couldn’t―”


“No, it wasn’t exactly him who fired it, but to be precise—.”

“That kind of power simply can’t come from his weapon, can it? This is a high-grade area attack, no, not even that, strictly speaking… it’s the energy from a projectile piercing through the upper atmosphere that’s causing―”

Bobae continued to elaborate her thoughts at length.

It took quite a while for Kijung to communicate to the group that “Leeha-hyung and Luger were together and it was Luger who fired it.”

“Heh, he’s quite the unusual guy. So, what did the guild leader say?”

“He told us to prepare to fight Ghibrid.”

“How do we even find Ghibrid?”

“We’re not finding it…”

As Kijung struck down another chimera, he laughed. To catch a tiger, one must enter the tiger’s den. That was Kijung’s usual approach.

But does one really have to enter the tiger’s den?

“They plan to lure it out.”

There’s a way to draw the tiger out of its den.

Having slaughtered all the manticores that acted as Ghibrid’s messengers, the creature would surely react. It would come where the bait is.

Leeha and Luger’s thoughts matched perfectly.

Luger was catching his breath. He looked quite exhausted to Leeha.

“Heh, tiring, is it?”

“Dammit, without any agility or strength bonuses! With your stats, you wouldn’t even be able to lift this!”

“Whoa!? So the gear you normally wear must have some impressive options. Oh, so when can we use the next projectile?”

“Ugh― Do you think I’m some kind of machine… It’ll take another minute and 30 seconds.”

A minute and 30 seconds is not a short time.


A minimum of 3,000 MP is required to fire the electromagnetic railgun.

But for Luger, who had forfeited all stat bonuses to maximize MP recovery rate and speed, the delay was somewhat burdensome.

The upside, though, was that the skill had no cooldown period. Nodding at Luger’s words, Leeha acknowledged his struggle.

“Alright. Then focus on the manticores. Until Ghibrid shows up.”

“You’re asking me to ignore Tiamat?”

“Hmm, for now, it’s crucial to draw out Ghibrid. I’ll handle Tiamat.”

As Leeha nodded, Kidd, who stood next to him, cast a look filled with doubt.

“Ha Leeha, are you saying you can handle Tiamat?”

“I’ll at least try. Kidd, head over to Pyro and find out the information Chiyou has.”

“I planned to do that anyway. Then Ha Leeha, you—”

“I need to get going. Prea?”

Leeha pushed Kidd’s back and called out to Prea.

Prea, wearing an expression of keen interest, was shifting from foot to foot impatiently.

“Hehe, I’ve been waiting for this. I think I know what you’re going to do, Ha Leeha.”

“You think it’ll work?”

“I’m dying of curiosity! Hurry and go!”

“Kidd! Then I’ll leave Pyro to you— Aaaah!”

Prea quickly pulled Leeha, and their positions shifted swiftly, thanks to the spirits of wind and earth.

They were headed to the highest battleground in this war, where Tiamat’s head was located.

Luger snorted as he watched the two depart.


“Hmph, that damn guy. Fooling around with a woman.”

“…… Jealous?”

“What are you talking about! Don’t be ridiculous, Kidd.”

Luger yelled at Kidd, who chuckled, his shoulders shaking from amusement.

“Heh. Don’t get yourself killed if Ghibrid shows up.”

“Ha! I should be telling you that. If Pyro is there, Igor will be too. If Chiyou is targeting that place… You’ll be exposed to Kyle, Elizabeth, and Brown. Not that you’d be easily defeated, but even if I got caught, Kidd, you’d be faster to fall.”

Though his tone was mocking, Luger’s concern was genuine.

One of the more perilous tasks at this juncture was dealing with Chiyou, even more so than facing Tiamat.

Moreover, they had no clue where Bluebeard was hiding.

Compared to Luger, who had to deal with the known variable of Ghibrid and the unknown variable of Bluebeard, Kidd had to handle two unknown variables.

Kidd lifted the brim of his hat slightly to look at Luger.

And Luger realized that it had been a long time since he’d seen such an expression on Kidd’s face.

Kidd took something out of his bag.

He strapped something to each ankle and held something in both hands.

It looked like a cross between armor and weapons, but Luger couldn’t discern what they were.

“〈Crimson Geckos〉 won’t fall. No matter who the opponent.”

After finishing his preparations, Kidd began running towards the scene, where flames and screams erupted.

Only after a moment did Luger grasp Kidd’s words.

“It’s not that he himself won’t fall, but rather 〈Crimson Geckos〉 won’t fall? It seems like Crimson Geckos have been awakened… Does it have to do with those items?”

Watching Kidd’s retreating figure, Luger could only furrow his brow. As someone who dealt with ‘firearms’, he couldn’t make sense of the combination at all.

* * *

Leeha secured a spot, watching the furious battle of dragons.

Thanks to Luger’s valiant efforts, the movements of the chimeras became erratic, causing the front lines to fluctuate.

This allowed Leeha and Prea to move with ease in the rear.

Most importantly, the spirits assisting their movements enabled them to reach their objective much faster than regular users.

Their destination was the southern rear of the front line, just a bit further south from Tiamat’s ‘head.’

“Phew, seeing it from here, it’s truly enormous.”

Leeha casually lifted his Black Bass, aiming it in that direction.

Through the scope, Tiamat appeared so colossal that it felt like targeting an aircraft carrier. Moreover, there were multiple such aircraft carriers, and they were floating objects!

“Wow!? What are these spirits…?”

Leeha, startled, shouted the moment he took his eyes off the scope.

“Why are you so surprised? You’ve seen them before.”

“I’ve seen spirit kings, but these spirits―.”

『These spirits? Hah, you. If it weren’t for that necklace, you’d be long crushed by me.』

『…… Why did Lord Bozmok grant such power to a human like you?』

『I might understand why… or perhaps not?』

『Annoying.』

Leeha thought that if the guardians of the Dark Elves were miniaturized or if the spirits he saw in the spirit realm were transformed into 15-year-old human-like beings, they would look just like this.

He saw four types of spirits suddenly summoned next to Prea.

Prea laughed gleefully as she embraced them. She seemed to have already built considerable familiarity with the spirits. Though Leeha felt a pang of curiosity watching her interact so affectionately with them, now wasn’t the time to ask questions.

“Um, spirits. Our target to fight against is—.”

『Tiamat, right.』

『Krrrr, boiling anger! That stupid dragon born from demon fire knows nothing but demon fire!』

The spirits interrupted and thrashed about at Leeha’s words.

Leeha briefly felt perplexed. It wouldn’t be easy to make the spirits understand the strategy. Fortunately, Prea intervened.

“Yes, yes! So… let’s punish it! Destroy! Can you break Tiamat’s shield?”

『Breaking it is impossible.』

“What if anger helps?”

『Even with anger’s help, breaking is hard. But… we can make a hole.』

“Good! Just make a hole enough for you all to get through.”

The spirit of destruction looked at the spirit of wrath. He snorted immediately.

『But I don’t need this guy’s help. I can do it alone―.』

『What? Don’t be ridiculous! We’re both high-ranking spirits; what can you do alone!』

While the high-ranking spirit of wrath raged, Leeha whispered to her. Although he had roughly explained the strategy before, he hadn’t delved into the full role and potential use of the spirits.

— Prea, you’re amazing.

— You’re too kind. Based on what I heard, I figured it might be like this. Enhancing the spirit of destruction with the spirit of wrath to partially destroy Tiamat’s shield. Then we can infiltrate the spirits of chaos and spirit of lethargy and sloth inside, right?

Leeha cautiously asked her.

— Yes, exactly. Can you do it?

The spirit of wind had already emerged beside her.

Spirits couldn’t act independently at this distance from their spiritualist. Ultimately, the spiritualist had to get close to Tiamat.

Leeha, asking carefully, received a nod from Prea.

She had already resolved herself for this level of commitment. Prea’s determination was unwavering, no matter the danger.

“Ha Leeha-ssi, I leave it to you!”

Her protection depended solely on the mightiest cover fire from Middle Earth.

Leeha immediately pulled the bolt.

“Yes. I’ll stop anyone who approaches the spirits.”

Click.

“Then, let’s go!”

“Let’s go, Celestine! And the dark four siblings!”

『We’re not siblings! Stop making us boil with rage!』

One of Leeha’s secret weapons went into action.

There were a superior spirit of chaos and an intermediate spirit of power. If they could just reach near Tiamat’s head!

‘It’s possible. If I combine the skills I obtained with the spirits’ power…’
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Leeha opened the skill window as he watched Prea and the spirits move away.

The hint that led him to create this plan stemmed from his battle with Prea. It was tough to fight against the overwhelming power and destructive force enhanced by wrath, but the real challenge was…

“The Reservoir Dogs”

Description: The Spirit of Chaos King Karghasha is everywhere and nowhere. Many have stood before her wanting to find her, but no one has ever succeeded, which is proof of her power. Her infamous ability to make everyone distrustful and turn everyone into targets is renowned in the spirit realm. Even the Fire Spirit King Ifrit had once massacred 4,371 of her high-ranking spirits under Karghasha’s influence.

Effect: Upon a successful initial attack, all subjects within a 50m radius will attack each other.

(The caster’s form or a random threatening figure will morph the appearance of all subjects within the radius)

Mana: 1,500

Duration: 10 minutes

Cooldown: 1 hour

It was pure chaos.

* * *

This skill was why Leeha believed he could break through even if surrounded by numerous enemies. It was a skill that made everyone turn their weapons against each other.

Prea’s high-ranking spirits of wrath and mid-grade spirit of lethargy and sloth fought each other under this skill’s influence, and even Leeha himself was attacked by the spirit ‘Jellypong’.

What did it mean that the ‘item’ whose main goal was to protect Leeha ended up attacking him?

『Myong— Myong!』

“Jellypong, it must be a painful memory for you. But that’s exactly why… it will be our card.”

What if the six heads and six bodies of Tiamat were made to fight each other?

To explore that possibility, certain assumptions had to be made.

Could each of Tiamat’s six heads think individually?


And could the six intertwined, writhing bodies be separated from each other?

Neither assumption had been confirmed.

However, Leeha, wearing an expectant expression, aimed at the Manticore flying near Prea.

‘Now, I’m actually looking forward to this.’

At least one thing had been confirmed.

‘Kuzgunak’sh’s head… had shown different behavior compared to Tiamat’s other heads!’

“So, it should be possible! Go!”

Boom!

One Manticore turned to ash and began to fall.

Prea, who was flying in the sky, garnered much attention from the users on the ground.

The white-eyed spiritualist flew toward Tiamat!

Moreover, the Manticores approaching her were melting away.

“The woman who ignored our request for cooperation is now doing this?”

“Hmph, there’s a limit to solo play! Damn it, what are those annoying spirits around her? I can’t even see them properly.”

“Ha, but… aren’t Manticores failing to approach her? How is this possible? No matter how strong she is, maintaining that level of spirit concentration should be tough.”

Even the Wood Elf rankers commented as they noticed her sudden prominence.

A user who insisted on solo playing and knew nothing but her spirits, now displaying overwhelming power beyond the collective efforts of the Wood Elf race.

“Leeha-nim! Many enemies are gathering around!”

“Just protect Prea-nim. I’ll handle the rest. You’ve informed Bahamut-nim, right?”

This was all the result of Leeha and Blaugrunn’s efforts.


“Yes! For now… I’ve told him.”

“For now? What do you mean ‘for now’? Bahamut-nim can fight for a while and then retreat. I’ll tell you the timing. Make sure he retreats as soon as I say.”

“But—”

“No, Blaugrunn-ssi. Even if Bahamut-nim refuses to leave, you must ensure he retreats to a safe place.”

Leeha had a rough idea of what Blaugrunn had swallowed back, but he had to remain firm.

Because Chiyou might be involved.

In other words, Arcane Sniper might aim for Bahamut.

‘But… if Bahamut is completely out of sight and not in a threatening state—he won’t shoot.’

Only six bullets remained.

It was a number that could absolutely not be wasted.

If Chiyou was here with Kyle, or even watching this place, they needed to conserve even more.

That was Leeha’s belief.

The problem was finding the right moment to retreat.

‘I can’t let Bahamut die!’

Fwhaaaaaaa—aah!

At that moment, flames soared again from a place considerably far from Leeha.

“Whew, Pyro is as relentless as ever.”

Had Kidd not arrived yet? While Leeha shook his head, he heard a loud whisper that seemed to rumble in his mind.

—No! It’s not Pyro!

—Huh, what? Hwayeon? It’s not Pyro?


Ram Hwayeon’s voice trembled. Not Pyro? Then who?

“Ah, wait a minute—.”

Only then did something dawn on Leeha.

It wasn’t something he had considered important before. Although he didn’t know the exact details, Leeha thought that the current situation might be ‘it.’

—It wasn’t Pyro, oppa!

Ram Hwayeon was so distressed by the menacing creature wreaking havoc on the battlefield that she unintentionally called Leeha ‘oppa’.

* * *

“Waaaah! Run! Run!”

“If only we could run—gah…”

Its movements were unpredictable. At first glance, it looked like an ordinary giant.

The size was similar, and it had two legs and two arms.

The key difference that marked it as a monster, and not a player, was the shape of its arms.

One arm was shaped like a skewer, impaling two players, while the other resembled a saw blade, slicing off chunks of their flesh.

“What the hell is that thing?!”

“Does it matter?! The important thing is to run! It’s fast and also has fire skills—oh, it’s coming!”

Fsssssh…

As the monstrous creature swung its weapon-like arm, a massive flame lance shot towards the players.

Caught in the chaos, many players couldn’t avoid it and turned to face the scorching heat.

The flame lance had already reached dangerously close.

“Damn it! Dying to a monster we don’t even know!”

“No. It’s a Chimera.”

In front of the shouting man, a small girl appeared. Her shimmering blue waves quickly transformed and launched a spell.

“Ice Blast.”

—————————!

Suddenly, hot steam filled the battlefield.

After the steam that obstructed their vision dissipated, the players saw it.

“It’s Ram Hwajung!”

“Whoa!? It’s Ram Hwajung! Let’s kill that damn thing!”

“Hwajung!”

Ram Hwayeon shouted her sister’s name at the top of her lungs. She was already significantly ahead.

From the first sight of the suspicious pillar of fire, she had advanced to gather information about it, and to prevent the undiminishing flames from approaching the Wood Elves.

The most important reason was that if the warp gates, painstakingly installed, were attacked and destroyed, they couldn’t be restored.

“Unni.”

Ram Hwajung briefly looked up at the sky.

Arzenmacht was busy fighting the chromatic dragons near Tiamat’s head.

She turned her head to look at Ram Hwayeon.

“Get out of the way.”

Then she cast her spell.

Ram Hwajung could tell. She knew how powerful the monster in front of her was, what this chimera really was!

“What, why? Hwajung, if you handle it—.”

Shuaaaaa────────!

The monstrous creature that had been standing idly suddenly jumped towards Ram Hwajung.

Shiiiik, the sound of the wind being cut was so loud that even Ram Hwayeon could hear it as the creature swung its arm powerfully.

“—Hwajung!”

Ram Hwayeon hurriedly shouted, but Ram Hwajung was nowhere to be seen. She reappeared behind the creature and used a skill.

“Ice Fog.”

“Whoa! Double casting!”

“That’s Lee Jiwon’s signature move! And she cast the ice attribute first and then used Blink!”

As the ice fog enveloped the vicinity of the creature, the users cheered.

“Everyone. Get out. Absolute Zero, Ice Ground.”

However, Ram Hwajung’s expression was not bright at all.

Freezing the ground the creature stood on and making its legs slow was not enough!

All of this was not for ‘attack.’

Even though Ram Hwayeon couldn’t hear her sister’s voice, she knew. Ram Hwajung was trying to save the surrounding users.

In other words, this monster possessed a level of strength that was overwhelming even for her.

“Everyone, get out! Quickly! It’s a monster that Hwajung can’t handle alone!”

“Hah hah! Ram Hwajung is here, what are you talking about!”

“Yeah, yeah! Compared to Tiamat—this punk is just a toy! I’ll kill it—.”

The user’s neck, who was running towards the creature, suddenly separated from their torso.

The expression on the head, which didn’t even know how it died, rolled on the ground and turned ashen grey.

The blood fountain gushing from the still-standing corpse started to be absorbed by the creature’s body.

“…… What is this?”

“Berserker skill?”

It wasn’t that Ram Hwajung hadn’t foreseen this. With so many users and NPCs around, she must have considered the possibility of facing it together.

Nevertheless, she advised the surrounding users to escape.

Ram Hwayeon finally realized it. She had heard from Leeha once. After Leeha heard everything from Prea, he had casually mentioned it once.

“Igor! Pyro! It was a chimera combining those two!”

She finally remembered that Ghibrid had used the corpses of Igor and Pyro.

Ram Hwajung’s face contorted slightly, and Ram Hwayeon tried to evacuate the surrounding users.

“Everyone, run away! There’s no point in you being here….”

“No, you don’t need to run away. You all need to maintain the frontline against the chimera. I will lure it away.”

A voice cut through Ram Hwayeon’s words and reverberated through the battlefield clearly.

At this moment, it was as if time had stopped; even the frantically moving users turned their heads to him with fascinated expressions.

“They combined Igor with Pyro to make a chimera… Isn’t this interesting?”

“K-Kidd! Kidd is here!”

“Rapidfire Kidd!? What, why suddenly—huh?”

The moment the users recognized him, Kidd’s form vanished.

Bang──────!

“What—Ah!?”

With the sudden sound of gunfire, they turned their heads naturally. To where the chimera had been just moments ago.

But no monster could be seen there.

Whoooo────────!

A strong wind blew, scattering dirt and sand briefly. Another long gunshot followed.

The users couldn’t understand what was happening.

“What the—.”

“Where did Ram Hwajung go again?”
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At the spot where Ram Hwajung had been standing, buying time for the users to escape by restraining the monster, the lavender afterimage disappeared.
Thud──────!
“What’s going on?”
“What is this?”
―Hwayeon! What’s happening with the Chimera?!
―… I don’t know.
―What do you mean you don’t know? Has Kidd arrived?
―He was here, but now he’s not.
―What? I distinctly told him to head your way earlier― There’s no way he hasn’t arrived yet―
―No, he definitely came. He passed right by me… Now he’s gone. Along with the Chimera.
When Kidd aimed his Crimson Geckos at the Chimera and fired, the moment the Chimera recognized him, he immediately leaped and vanished.
As the Chimera tried to swing its sword at Kidd who was mid-air, Kidd-nimbly evaded, seeming to move freely even while airborne. Using the swing’s momentum, he stepped on the sword’s blade and propelled himself again.
The Chimera, intent on capturing Kidd, released a burst of flame magic to gain thrust and pursued him.
Ram Hwajung, having witnessed everything, cast Blink and relocated.
All this happened within just a second.
The feeling that what they had just seen was a mere illusion left the users in despair.
The stark difference in level between a ranker who had completed a second job change, ranker-level users, and monsters combining the strengths of a ranker and ranker-level user was obvious.
Now, they had to face a monster showcasing its formidable strength.
Kidd adjusted his hat. A smile spread across his face.
* * *
Kidd halted at a location roughly a kilometer away from the frontline’s farthest point. Having reached there in an instant, he turned around immediately upon stopping.
─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─!
His turning motion and the initial shot were almost simultaneous.
However, there was only one ringing sound of a collision.
“Grrrr…”
The Chimera, blending traits of Igor and Pyro, glanced at its broad, saw-like arm from a short distance away from Kidd.
Soot was smeared on the spot where it had deflected one bullet.
“Indeed… With Igor’s blend, it reacts faster than ‘Lugermon’, doesn’t it?”
It wasn’t just Pyro’s characteristics.
The monster, also having Igor’s physical abilities, was evidently far stronger than the previous Chimera synthesized from Luger and Manticore.
Kidd’s six shots formed an impact cluster within a 5mm radius from a distance of 30 meters, demonstrating remarkable precision.
Even so, the Chimera deflected one bullet and dodged the remaining five.
This implied that it moved swiftly enough during the minuscule gaps between the bullets’ intervals to change direction and evade all of them.
Although its reaction speed was unbelievably fast, Kidd nonchalantly drew out another Crimson Geckos.
“I can acknowledge that my rate of fire was slower than usual due to the spin. But―.”
Bang──
“Let’s see.”
“Kyaaa―.”
Bang──
“If it…”
“―Aaaah―.”
Bang──
“Can dodge…”
“―Aaaaaa!”
Bang──
“This.”
Then, as if testing the enemy, he fired repeatedly.
Though the bullets were mechanically discharged, Kidd’s gaze changed slightly with each shot.
Predicting the enemy’s movements, the initial six shots were fired at the expected movement points.
Anticipating the evasion zones and post-evasion landing points, the second set of six shots were fired.
Expanding and extending the range of the third and fourth sets of six shots each.
The Chimera dodged all of them.
Kidd nodded as he finished reloading his gun.
“This means its physical abilities exceed Igor’s. Because Ghibrid’s power is enforced―.”
Kidd flinched and stepped back.
The saw-like blade passed just above Kidd’s face.
Buuuuuuuuuuuuuuung!
By the time the eerie cutting sound was heard, about a third of Kidd’s hat brim had already been torn off.
‘It got faster? I can’t see it—.’
Kidd’s eyes widened slightly. This evasive maneuver could only be credited to pure instinct.
The Chimera didn’t stop with one attack.
As soon as the horizontal slash with the saw-blade arm failed, it thrust its other arm forward.
The skewer-like arm aimed for Kidd’s heart, stabbing towards him. Kidd gritted his teeth and spun his body around.
Dodging based on seeing the attack was impossible.
Kidd only managed to evade by predicting the weapon’s movement and turning his body beforehand.
Buuuuuuuuuuuuuuung!
By the time the cutting sound was heard again, both of their positions had changed.
The Chimera’s brow twitched.
Kidd swallowed dryly. A long horizontal cut appeared on the back of his coat. He was lucky the skewer didn’t tear it completely; if it had been the saw-blade instead, his coat would have been shredded.
Kidd frowned and immediately pulled the trigger of his Crimson Geckos.
Once again, only the gunfire echoed loudly; no impact or hitting sound was heard.
The opponent’s side-to-side movements were faster than Kidd’s reactions.
When he aimed opposite to where he predicted, the Chimera had already moved in the same direction again, reading Kidd’s ‘Rapidfire’ effortlessly.
‘No, it’s faster than before! This level of reaction, I’ve only seen from Le…’
Moreover, the distance was closing.
Even though Kidd was quick with reloading and rapid firing, reloading was still slower than his Rapidfire.
In those brief moments, the Chimera closed in by at least 3 meters each time.
Now only about 8 meters remained. By the time he finished two more reloads, the Chimera would attack again.
Could he withstand it?
Kidd gritted his teeth.
He should have used his own weapon from the start.
Facing a Chimera fused with Igor and Pyro, he wanted to test how strong it was without using other skills or assistance, but that had been a mistake.
‘I could keep up if I use 〈Overclock〉, but if I use it now—’
He would be completely out in this Tiamat battle. And the pain that followed after using the skill?
Kidd gritted his teeth.
In the worst-case scenario, he would use it.
But not yet; he needed to find a way to survive a little longer, just a little longer.
‘If I can dodge just once, I can definitely win—’
Tsukakat―! Kuuuuuung!
The Chimera’s ankle froze as it lunged towards Kidd. Unable to handle its momentum, the Chimera fell forward.
Shupat―!
At the same time, a lavender flash appeared beside Kidd.
“So close. Could have. Cut the ankle.”
Ram Hwajung, who had been following with a blink, finally arrived.
Kidd managed to adjust his hat.
“… Did you intentionally freeze only the ankle to use the Chimera’s strength against itself?”
“Yes. Hard to hit.”
Ram Hwajung replied without a smile.
If the skin or bones couldn’t withstand the strength, the ankle would have snapped as if it stepped on a landmine.
But the Chimera crafted by Ghibrid wasn’t that weak.
“I know. That’s why I thought you wouldn’t come.”
“Shut up.”
Arriving just in time, Ram Hwajung took advantage of the Chimera’s distraction, using minimal mana to produce maximum effect. Watching this, Kidd finally smiled.
“Couldn’t catch. Your hat.”
“Is that so.”
“Yes. Too weak.”
The Chimera growled.
Judging from its glowing red arms, it seemed likely it would start using Pyro’s attributes in its next attack.
Ram Hwajung had her reasons for saying ‘we can’t capture the Chimera with just the two of us’ to Kidd.
The two had only once worked together before, and that was when they fought against the alchemist Crowley.
Kidd did not get angry at Ram Hwajung’s words.
He simply checked both his wrists and ankles once again. Only then did Ram Hwajung also see Kidd’s condition.
“Strange.”
“I am aware. But to utilize the desert geckos… this is essential.”
The gear, though somewhat clumsy and ambiguous whether it was for defense or offense, soon changed its appearance.
Click, click— clank.
The gear, which had some empty spaces, was soon filled by Kidd inserting the “Crimson Geckos” into it.
“… Even stranger.”
“Shooting fast means my bullets reach the enemy quickly. For my bullets to reach the enemy’s weak points fast—.”
Rapidfire was done not with hands but with feet.
“I needed to keep the muzzle as close to them as possible.”
Kidd truly understood that meaning.
Moving swiftly while shooting? What Browless had shown at the beginning surely meant just that.
But wasn’t that the time when Kidd couldn’t properly handle the “Crimson Geckos”?
Having just four simple revolvers and possessing four “Crimson Geckos” were different matters.
Of course, they were different from “Black Bass” or “Cobalt Blue Python” as well.
Why did he need ‘four’ revolvers unlike any other firearms of the Three Musketeers?
Kidd couldn’t help but chuckle.
After becoming the “Desperado”, he had learned many skills.
There was the nearly one-hit-kill “Execution”, the “Overclock” that pushed the brain to its extreme, and even “Hold’em” which risked Kidd’s own life.
Yes, those were skills fitting for the job title of Desperado.
A gambler and outlaw.
But was Kidd a gambler or an outlaw himself?
Upon returning from the Eastern Expedition of the New Continent, Kidd further explored his own traits and was finally able to awaken the desert geckos in a village in the middle of the desert.
“Kyaaaa—!”
The chimera charged at Kidd at a speed almost invisible to the eye.
Ram Hwajung used Blink.
And Kidd?
“Here I go.”
He did not flee from the chimera.
Instead, he dashed toward the direction the chimera was rushing, simultaneously firing the flaming spear and swinging the sawblade arm.
“〈Martial Arts: Geckos〉.”
A red light flashed from Kidd’s arms and legs.
────────────!!!
“Kiit?”
The flaming spear extended straight and vanished. However, the sawblade was blocked by something, creating a rough metallic noise.
The chimera saw what was blocking its arm.
It was a small piece of protective gear attached to Kidd’s wrist, stuck onto the sawblade arm.
Despite being made of a material and size that should have been broken or destroyed, the auxiliary tool enveloped in red light remained intact.
“Kigiit—.”
The chimera tried to detach its arm, but Kidd’s body moved along with the chimera’s arm. Just as if they were glued together, Kidd’s arm flashed.
Bang────────!
It was the muzzle flame. The bullet penetrated the chimera’s face.
“Kyaaaak—!”
The chimera retreated.
When it took a step back, Kidd stepped forward.
It had to be so. The two arms were practically attached.
Before the chimera realized this, light flashed from Kidd’s opposite arm. It pierced the chimera’s chest.
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When the chimera realized that its arm and Kidd’s arm were attached and started shaking wildly, Kidd’s arm was no longer connected to the blade.
The chimera thrust its spiked arm forward.
Kidd countered by kicking upwards, sending the spike into the air. At that very moment, even as the spike soared skyward, Kidd’s leg remained near the chimera’s upper body.
From there, from Kidd’s ankle, the “Crimson Geckos” roared.
Tatadang──────!
The Crimson Geckos, merged with the protective gear, spewed fire.
Whether deflecting or blocking the opponent’s close-range attacks,
Or attaching to and detaching from the opponent’s melee weapons,
Kidd simply flowed naturally, entrusting his body to the movement.
“Kyaaahhh!”
The more wildly the chimera raged, slashing and stabbing, scattering flames randomly, the more Kidd’s movements became mercurial.
“…… Pei Wu.”
Watching the rapid battle between Kidd and the chimera, Ram Hwajung thought of Pei Wu. It was a reasonable connection to make.
He was subduing the target from close enough to feel the opponent’s breath, like a martial artist.
“Crimson Geckos,”
Using the adhesive limbs of the lizards, they could cling to or detach from any surface.
When there was only one Black Bass and one Cobalt Blue Python, there were four Crimson Geckos.
By attaching to the limbs of the user, they allowed subjugation of the enemy in close-quarters combat 『Rapidfire』.
『Accuracy』 was for long-range, 『Pierce』 was for mid-range.
After all, the range of control for 『Rapidfire』 was close quarters.
If one brought the muzzle of the gun to zero distance to the target, making the close-range gap entirely zero, how powerful would Rapidfire become?
And what did zero distance mean for firearms?
It meant bringing the muzzle right up to the target.
– Gagagaga…….
– Hold on tighter, Kidd!
– Just wait, we’ll align the shot.
– Kekekekeke! Good, good!
Kidd was dancing.
Now, with the Crimson Geckos, who kept their eyes open, pulling the trigger for him!
─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─, ─…….
The chimera swung, kicked, slashed, stabbed, and leaped insanely but could not escape Kidd’s range.
Once attached to an enemy, Kidd did not fall off.
The faster the opponent’s reaction and the stronger the enemy’s attack, the quicker Kidd’s movements utilizing the Crimson Geckos became.
The gunfire did not cease.
The chimera’s painful screams were soon drowned by the next gunshot. The chimera’s flesh splattered everywhere.
At the same time, the chimera’s entire body was turning crimson with blood.
– Are you ready?
– Yes.
Even without a whisper, Ram Hwajung, who had been watching, knew. Given the battle pattern so far, the chimera’s next attack was predictable.
“Kyaaahhh―!”
Just before the pillar of flames erupted from its body, Kidd finally detached from the chimera.
If the skill 〈Flame Heaven Pillar〉 of Pyro had the same mechanism, summoning a pillar of fire to simultaneously target area and defend the caster,
“〈Ice of the Abyss〉.”
The chimera could never defeat Ram Hwajung.
After all, even the original Pyro had succumbed.
Crackle…….
.
Igor’s movements nullified Ram Hwajung’s skill, but there was nothing more the Chimera could do in its current state.
Despite wanting to struggle, the monster, whose lower body was already completely frozen, couldn’t move anymore.
The Chimera, partially frozen alongside the flames, had reduced in size by over 30% since it first appeared.
“Ggh, ah–!?”
Chunks of Chimera flesh, exactly 30%, gnawed off by Kidd and the Crimson Geckos, were scattered everywhere.
Ram Hwajung had already turned her eyes away from the Chimera to observe it.
“Disgusting.”
“Phew, that skill is even more disgusting.”
“… Pei Wu. Copycat.”
“Haha. It wasn’t copying. It’s based on pre-existing ‘martial arts’. Though, it’s more informal and has added flexibility.”
“Martial arts?”
Ram Hwajung tilted her head in confusion.
Kidd, removing the Crimson Geckos attached to his arms and legs and holstering them, responded.
“It’s from a movie before you were born, Ram Hwajung, so you probably wouldn’t know. The name of the original martial art is…”
Clang────!!!
As Kidd spoke, the Chimera and the ice pillar it was frozen in shattered entirely.
A white light emanated from Kidd.
Reveling in the leveling-up effect, Kidd whispered to Ram Hwajung.
Ram Hwajung, tilting her head, whispered to her unni.
Situation resolved, chimera dead.
After a moment’s contemplation, she added two more words.
Kidd. Gun-fu.
The whisper reported to Ram Hwayeon was soon relayed to Leeha.
* * *
‘Gun-fu, a rifle martial art? What is that?! No matter what, you should know how to fight! What kind of fight can a musketeer—.’
No, there was no need to fight. Leeha also realized Kidd’s combat principle at that moment.
This wasn’t Middle Earth. Strength or technique wasn’t necessary.
It only required the speed to react to the enemy’s movements.
In that regard, Kidd with 『Rapidfire』?
‘… Perfect. The attacks are handled by 〈Crimson Geckos〉, and Kidd’s body solely focuses on defensive movements? He was already a madman when it came to footwork before, but….’
More precisely, the Crimson Geckos used their attachment ability for detachment and reattachment, and to maximize this ability, Kidd had crafted the ‘supplementary defensive gear’ from the Bottleneck?
However, the extremely limited information delivered by Ram Hwajung allowed Leeha no further speculation.
The crucial fact was that Kidd defeated the synthetic Chimera created by Igor and Pyro, which meant he could now face the real Igor or Pyro given the chance.
“The real problem is over here!”
Booommm────────!
Booommm────────!
Leeha pulled the trigger towards the approaching Chromatic Dragons near Prea.
The Chromatic Dragons were charging madly at Prea. Even when the Metal Dragons tried to stop them, they couldn’t halt the fervency of the rampaging Chromatic Dragons.
‘Damn, we broke through the shield, but—.’
The Spirit of Wrath had empowered the Spirit of Destruction to pierce part of Tiamat’s shield.
However, Leeha and Prea’s plan had worked only to that extent.
The Spirits of Chaos and Might had no effect on Tiamat. Even the Chromatic Dragons influenced by Tiamat were unaffected by Chaos or Might.
In the end, the only method left was to directly strike Tiamat with the Spirit of Destruction, which had broken through the shield.
―The attacks aren’t landing! I can’t believe it, the Spirit of Destruction is giving up, saying its strength isn’t enough!
However, for the queen and mother of all Chromatic Dragons, attacks related to the dark attribute were practically null.
―Then just keep breaking the shield! If I can just fire—
“―That’s not easy either! More importantly― Tiamat’s tentacles are attacking—”
At the moment when Prea penetrated the shield and entered, Leeha also tried to shoot. If it were the Black Bass that struck at the core, surely there would be some way to do it. However, the shield was restored in an instant.
So quickly that Leeha didn’t even have a chance to fire a bullet.
Breaking the shield again wasn’t an easy task either.
Up to that point, Prea had been the ‘closest enemy’ to Tiamat.
Therefore, a new ‘defensive pattern’ of Tiamat, which hadn’t been seen before, was triggered.
Tentacles extending from various parts of Tiamat’s body attempted to ensnare the flying Prea.
‘Long-range with breath attacks, close-range with tentacles, and the shield regenerates insanely fast! It doesn’t even break with normal attacks!’
It was the same when making another hole in the shield to get out.
If he had aimed to shoot at that moment, he would have had to penetrate Prea’s torso and hit Tiamat.
Such a thing was impossible.
‘Damn Middle Earth! How the hell are we supposed to break this!?’
Cursing wouldn’t help.
In the end, Leeha had to recommend a retreat to Prea. However, while intrusion was easy, retreat was never simple in battle.
To ‘return alive,’ considerable effort was required.
Having noticed that Prea approached Tiamat, the chromatic dragons began focusing their attacks on Prea, a situation that persisted until now.
“―Hwayeon! How about that?”
“―Ah, not yet. Our guild members are continuously checking, but it’s not done yet! It seems almost complete, but the finishing touches…”
“―Damn it… We need that!”
Tiamat’s invasion was too fast.
Despite Bottleneck’s efforts, only Luger and Kidd’s items were completed. The item Leeha requested was still being crafted by all the Dwarves, even at this moment.
‘If only the Black Bass bullet hits, it should work somehow!’
But the location of the Dragon Heart was unknown. No, its very existence was a mystery.
Tiamat’s outer shell?
Normal dragon scales were tougher than most armor. There was no need to mention Tiamat’s scales.
‘Even dragon scales are still physical armor! Such things can’t block my bullets. Moreover, with a strike from the core…’
It would provide a direct shock to the Dragon’s Heart. If only that shield surrounding it wasn’t there!
‘Should I have used the skill granted by the Spirit of Destruction on that side after all!? Was it a mistake to destroy Le’s staff…?’
Regretting it now was futile.
Moreover, without his staff, Le couldn’t exert even half of his usual power, which wasn’t necessarily bad, but Leeha at this point wouldn’t know.
The problem remained how to overcome this situation.
Was there really no way?
“Damn it all! Eat it all up, eat it up!”
────────────!!!!
In the stifling battlefield where they had been constantly pushed back, Tiamat’s heads began to glow. Before Leeha could grit his teeth, the entire frontline started buzzing.
“Br-Breath! It’s breath!”
“How are we supposed to win this!? The story feels like we’re meant to lose, why should we even block this!?”
Panicked users were thrown into chaos.
How were they supposed to block this breath attack?
They had already suffered enormous damage from the sporadic mana chunks spewing out from Tiamat’s body, and now it was even using breath attacks.
Alexander and Bailephus hurriedly circled around Tiamat’s heads, but Kuzgunak’sh’s head showed no reaction.
“Hmm…”
『There’s no response. At this rate, all six breaths will be fired, Alexander.』
Bailephus spoke quickly, dodging the red dragon’s breath.
Bahamut, approaching from the opposite side, completely incinerated one of the red dragon’s wings with his own breath.
『Tiamat has completely subdued Kuzgunak’sh’s thoughts. Bailephus, we must find a way to provoke him.』
Listening to Bahamut’s hint, Alexander also steeled himself.
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Though unsure if they could achieve it, there was no other options left.
“If we provoke Tiamat, what happens if it releases a full breath attack?”
『If it clashes like last time… it will result in many sacrifices.』
Bahamut wore a faint smile.
The collision of breaths between Bahamut and Tiamat previously had resulted in a cataclysm that killed an immense number of users and chimeras.
『To enforce justice and protect the good… aren’t those the words you cherish the most, Alexander?』
“Are you saying…”
『I also cherish them. The best we can do now is set an example.』
To an outsider, this conversation might have seemed ambiguous, but Alexander understood. He moved even closer to Bailephus and cautiously activated a skill.
Sacrifices should not be made.
What is the greatest task in protecting the good?
“We must stop it ourselves. Let’s go, Bailephus.”
『To block the breath attack of a being comparable to the lord with our bodies… if we survive, we shall become legends.』
“Hmph.”
With a scoff, Alexander activated his skill.
As light flashed around Tiamat’s head, all eyes were drawn to it.
“A breath attack! It’s about to release a breath attack—”
“No, no! It’s not a breath attack! That’s not a breath attack! That light is—”
“What is that…?”
What they witnessed was an entirely new life form.
Dragonkin!
Finally, it revealed itself to the world.
『Come, my partner. It’s time to enforce justice!』
“Alex…”
“Alexander! That’s Alexander and Bailephus!”
“Is that even possible? Is there really a skill like that!?”
“They’re flying towards Tiamat! Together with Bahamut—they’re trying to block the breath attack!”
A life form, bearing a closer resemblance to a human but possessing clear dragon characteristics, and the radiant platinum dragon beside it, flying toward Tiamat, was more than enough to rekindle hope in the users.
Leading by example.
Holding the top rank wasn’t just about maintaining a level.
Baaaaaaaaaillepheeeeeeeuuuuuuuusssss───!!!
‘Finally responding, Kuzgunak’sh.’
『But this time, the direction is different.』
One of the twisted heads and bodies writhed. However, this time, the movement didn’t affect the other heads. Enormous mana particles continued to gather around Tiamat’s head.
‘We must mix up the heads as much as possible, Alexander.’
『Hm.』
Even if they couldn’t cancel Ku’thsis’s breath attack, they could try to make the breaths cross or clash against each other.
Alexander, now unified, attempted to ascend but sharply turned to the left. It was due to the dense mana aura sensed from the right.
『Onyx.』
『What a grotesque sight, Bailephus! So, you’ve finally become one with a human!』
Onyx’s breath attack was sensed by Bailephus and conveyed to Alexander!
The Black Dragon, shivering and raising its scales, looked even more hideous and loathsome.
『You do not belong here, Onyx. Foolish dragon.』
『Bahamut! Are you really in a position to say that? We, the chromatic dragons, always oppressed…』
『Didn’t you oppress others yourself rather than being the oppressed? The other chromatic dragons would bite their tongues hearing this nonsense.』
『Arrgh—.』
It was Onyx who had established a terror regime based solely on power under the guise of being a patriarch. Bahamut’s sharp retort made Onyx grit its teeth.
That brief moment was plenty.
Alexander flew back near Tiamat’s ‘Kuzgunak’sh’s’ head.
Seeing the swiftly flying golden dragon, Tiamat’s head trembled.
**Kyahhhhh―!**
The terrifying noises, which seemed to come from another world, had effects beyond mere sound—they induced status ailments. Users below level 170 couldn’t even walk and were paralyzed in a state of ‘fear.’
“How are we supposed to stop something like that?”
“This quest wasn’t meant to be stopped here in the first place! We should have gathered our forces in the Old Continent to stop it!”
“Damn it, I knew something was off since the quest didn’t pop up, but this―.”
**Kiiieeeee―!**
“―No! Alexander didn’t give up!”
Despite the other users succumbing to fear and despair creeping into their minds, Alexander hadn’t given up. His persistence had a tangible effect. At least one of Tiamat’s six heads had its gathering mana particles quickly dissipate.
“One breath attack is down!”
Kuzgunak’sh’s head reacted distinctly to Bailephus. Even in death, the being, which harbored a relentless grudge solely against Bailephus, was exerting its full power. However, this wasn’t good news for Alexander and Bailephus. Using Tiamat’s breath attack derived from Kuzgunak’sh’s head to hold off other Tiamat heads was their best option. If just one breath attack was gone, what good was that?
“So what? There are still five―.”
“Now’s the time to fire!”
Five breath attacks still remained. Alexander gritted his teeth hard enough to split his lips and took flight rapidly. Bahamut was already prepared. Holding his shining spear with both hands, Alexander took on a stance like a baseball player, flapping his wings in the air.
『I’m sorry, Bailephus, Alexander. If I were in my full condition, I could have tried to block it…』
『You don’t need to say that. If our Lord hadn’t stopped Le, Pyrot-Cocri would have awakened, and things would be worse than they are now.』
Bahamut, who had one arm missing, barely managed a faint smile as he looked at Alexander, who was encouraging him.
『Well then, let’s survive and meet again.』
And at that moment, Tiamat fired her breath attacks.
────────────!!!!
The breath attacks didn’t scatter aimlessly. Tiamat, who had maintained her sanity enough to overpower Kuzgunak’sh’s thoughts just moments before, naturally aimed at her “biggest obstacle!”
The five breath attacks clearly targeted the pairing of Bahamut, Alexander, and Bailephus.
The multi-colored breath attacks had an energy output that was fundamentally different from what dragons of those colors would normally discharge. In the face of such overwhelming light and power, Bahamut, Alexander, and Bailephus neither counterattacked nor evaded. Their sole aim was to minimize and contain all damage.
Users fighting the chimera even paused to watch at this moment. The relentless streams of light resembled a flooding river. The only things blocking that river were two mere rocks. The rocks were slowly being pushed back, yet they didn’t allow the water to bypass them or seep through any cracks.
It was an impossible-seeming yet perfect defense.
“Lord Bahamut… Alexander….”
Leeha watched the scene with a burning heart. He knew it was time to abandon his sense of helplessness.
When the seemingly eternal light finally faded, three stars were falling from the sky. The one stroke of luck amidst misfortune was that Alexander, Bailephus, and even Bahamut, transformed from their “dragon” forms, were not reduced to ash.
They had survived, but could do nothing more.
『Lo───────rd!』
Blaugrunn was rapidly diving toward them.
“Damn it! Blaugrunn-ssi! I can’t take it anymore…”
Leeha couldn’t hold back any longer. He thought perhaps he should step forward, face Blaugrunn, and move alongside him.
The battlefield was filled with fierce combat between the Metal Dragons and the Chromatic Dragons, but if he could just manage to wedge in even by a little…
Or if he could kill all the Chromatic Dragons, the Metal Dragons might find a way to break Tiamat’s shield!
Leeha was about to use a skill.
If it weren’t for the sudden voice that echoed in his mind, he might have already used 《Partner: Step Forward》.
―Don’t do it! Leeha-ssi!
The voice was firm.
Leeha was momentarily bewildered. He quickly recognized whose voice it was.
―… Nara-ssi? How― no, why―
It was a whisper from Shin Nara.
* * *
―Hold on! Don’t go out now! According to Lark-ssi… there will surely be an opportunity! There will definitely be a moment when Bahamut is repelled!
Shin Nara shouted even before listening to Leeha. As soon as he heard her voice, all his questions tangled up.
It took him less than a second to gather his thoughts.
What she had done until now, where she was currently, whether she was watching him or not, none of that was important.
―The plan?
Surely, she was giving him the timing so he wouldn’t step out. Regardless of where she was watching from or what she was thinking, the important thing was why she was interrupting at this exact moment.
Shin Nara quickly responded without lengthy explanations.
―I don’t know exactly! Lark-ssi asked me to stop you from acting impulsively, to prevent you from emotionally exploding, especially towards the end of this battle! He said that surely, such a time would come―and once I held you back, you would handle it on your own…
Shin Nara’s voice trailed off with anxiety. It was only natural for her to feel unsure about how much of this Leeha understood.
But as he listened to her whisper, he couldn’t help but laugh helplessly.
‘Handle it on my own… huh.’
No matter how sharp Lark was, he couldn’t foresee everything.
The battlefield was as unpredictable as a living creature, and expecting things to unfold exactly as planned was nearly impossible.
Lark knew that as well.
That’s likely why he made such a request to Shin Nara. It was also a testament to Lark’s immense trust in him.
―Damn it, Lark. You’re too perceptive, and it makes me uneasy.
―What?
Leeha realized he could do it. So all he needed was for his rash actions to be curbed.
In the end, this was the meaning of what Lark asked Shin Nara to do, wasn’t it?
Going to Blaugrunn now to strike at Tiamat was merely acting with his head alone.
This was one of the ‘reckless factors’ that Lark was worried about.
Acting in a state where the head was hot but the heart was cold did no good for the battlefield.
With Shin Nara’s voice, Leeha found his composure once more.
Head cold, heart hot.
―Blaugrunn-ssi! Take Raphaela and retreat with Lord Bahamut, Bailephus-nim, and Alexander! It’s earlier than planned, but it doesn’t matter!
―What? Yes! Understood!
Leeha immediately whispered to Blaugrunn. If even the Saintess went with them, they wouldn’t die. That was all that mattered.
‘The original plan did not involve us getting pushed this far!’
.
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Leeha hadn’t neglected planning Bahamut’s retreat.
After understanding Lark’s true intentions, one of his instructions to Blaugrunn had been to retreat safely with Bahamut.
However, they had been delaying due to the ‘necessary item’ still not being ready.
Of course, with Bahamut genuinely taking a hit as he had just now, there was no more time to delay or try anything else.
Blaugrunn found Raphaela, then teleported Bahamut, Alexander, who had his 〈Fusion〉 skill forcibly deactivated, and Bailephus back to Bahamut’s lair.
After confirming their complete disappearance, Leeha reassured Shin Nara.
― “Thank you, Nara! I’ll act in line with Lark’s ‘operation’ too!”
― “Huh? Operation? Do you know what Lark is thinking, Leeha?”
― “That’s something we need to ask from now! Maybe he’s over there!”
Leeha’s eyes were fixed on one spot. Bahamut had fully retreated.
Then, who would move next?
By Tiamat’s head, a dragon was flying towards its waist area instead.
‘Onyx.’
While the other chromatic dragons were busy subduing the leaderless metal dragons, the elder chromatic dragon was retreating towards Tiamat’s waist?!
Almost no user noticed the unnatural movement.
But Leeha did.
It was opponent movement he had ‘already read’.
Leeha alternated between using 〈Eagle’s Eye〉 and a scope to closely observe Onyx’s movements.
Tiamat’s shield, which even spririts of destruction could barely pierce for a second, was split effortlessly by Onyx. Even Tiamat’s tentacles did not hinder the approach of the Black Dragon.
‘…… Is that even possible?! Because he’s a chromatic dragon― as he’s originally Tiamat’s subordinate, he has such authority―.’
Onyx likely knew.
Even if it was impossible, he would have used the confusion of the battlefield to gain such authority from Tiamat.
Why would Tiamat need protection when she was almost invulnerable to proper damage from anyone?
Even so, Onyx would have convinced her through various means.
More precisely, it was the ‘one behind’ Onyx who had done so.
A lavender light sparkled beside Onyx. Before it even faded, ‘that person’ began sprinting towards Tiamat’s head.
“Lark!”
* * *
Leeha finally saw Lark dashing with rainbow streaks trailing. Onyx was also lowering his posture, following behind him.
‘It’s still working for now, right!? Damn, but why is whisper mode still―.’
Lark was still in whisper mode.
Is this the end? Will Lark just use that sword to kill Tiamat?
‘That’s the best outcome. Just kill Tiamat right here, and the moment Tiamat’s shield disappears, I’ll snipe Onyx― and the chromatic dragons will be defeated. Without even using ‘that item’― we can win.’
Although the Demon King’s Fragments remained, they could likely handle them too.
Maybe when Tiamat died, all the chromatic dragons would retreat, and with the metal dragons, even the Demon King’s Fragments wouldn’t dare advance recklessly.
‘…… That easily?’
What Onyx wanted was Tiamat’s death.
He wanted to secure his position through it.
If Tiamat died while Bahamut was defeated, would Onyx’s desire be fulfilled?
‘Wait…… What, wait a minute.’
Now Lark and Onyx were standing still. Leeha’s thoughts also paused.
That’s it? Is that how it ends?
Leeha could see Lark’s actions. Lark had raised his sword but did not immediately stab Tiamat with it.
That odd hesitation. Lark was hesitating to attack Tiamat.
Had all the elements not been set up yet?
‘No… that’s not it. Something’s wrong.’
That couldn’t be. By the time he persuaded Onyx, everything should have been set up already.
Then why didn’t he attack?
Onyx was still in his dragon form, appearing to urge Lark on.
The hesitation from Lark and the urging from Onyx gave Leeha a sense of discord.
‘There’s no way Onyx wouldn’t know Bahamut’s condition. At the very least, he should know that Bahamut isn’t dead. He’d think Bahamut is in a condition severe enough that he can’t influence the battlefield anymore.’
That’s why he summoned Lark at this timing, isn’t it?
But would that be enough?
‘Onyx is undoubtedly a strong dragon. He must be as powerful as Bailephus or even stronger. But if Bahamut were still alive… as long as there’s a chance for Bahamut to recover his strength, Onyx’s position would remain unstable, wouldn’t it?’
Killing Tiamat and then suddenly leading the chromatic dragons to invade Bahamut’s lair?
Even with Bahamut and Bailephus out of the way, even with Blaugrunn, who supports them, retreating from the frontlines, there are still quite a few metal dragons left.
That means they wouldn’t be able to quickly reform the panicked chromatic dragons to contend with the metal dragons.
Leeha didn’t see that as a high possibility. Onyx wasn’t that kind of dragon.
‘Yes, Onyx isn’t that kind of dragon! He doesn’t take risks!’
He’d want a perfect and certain opportunity for suppression.
More than anything, he’d want not just a temporary advantage but for himself, as a dragon individual, to grow stronger.
What does that mean?! Leeha was certain.
“Damn it, there must be something! The moment Tiamat is killed—there must be some structure where Onyx becomes stronger!”
While the method was unknown, the result was clear.
Because there was something where Tiamat’s death and Onyx’s strength were proportional, Lark was hesitating to attack!
Leeha looked at Lark.
Lark was gesturing towards Onyx.
Onyx took one step after another towards Lark, standing over Tiamat’s main body.
Even though Leeha couldn’t see Lark’s mouth, he could sense the tension between Lark and Onyx.
“Phew…”
Leeha steadied his breathing. He needed to grasp the situation.
How serious was it? Could Tiamat actually be killed? How far was Lark’s plan devised?
What should I do?
The muzzle of Black Bass adjusted its angle.
From Leeha’s position, the muzzle tilted approximately 33 degrees upwards. If a straight line were drawn, it would reach Lark and Onyx.
“Haah… I’m throwing it.”
He rolled the dice.
Leeha carefully cast his skill.
“〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉.”
BAM────────!
Fifty bullets struck Tiamat’s shield.
The noise of the flying bullets and the impact of them striking the shield were enough to alert those standing over Tiamat’s body.
At that moment, Leeha received a whisper.
— “Ha Leeha! Damn it! I knew you’d notice!”
Before Leeha could respond, Lark started running on Tiamat’s back.
―Lark―
―But I can’t say much. The moment I whisper, I’ll be attacked! This is the reason, damn it, you understand!? Ugh!
Onyx was attacking Lark. Running, Lark created a shield with the skill from his sword to block the magic or dodged hurriedly by rolling, barely avoiding it.
Leeha could see in an instant what was happening.
The reason why Lark had never whispered to anyone before, nor allowed Shin Nara, who was close by, to whisper.
‘He can read whispers!?’
It was one of the techniques that Pyrot-Cocri had shown once! There was a Demon King’s Fragment that could read who was being whispered to and even the contents of the whispers! It wasn’t surprising that Onyx was using it.
Onyx wouldn’t have completely trusted Lark. The cunning Black Dragon would have only tried to use Lark and placed some kind of safety measure to ensure he couldn’t betray him.
By accompanying Shin Nara, Lark showed to users, including Leeha, that he hadn’t betrayed the human side, while to Onyx, he assured his control over his whispers and the presence of Shin Nara as a ‘hostage’ of sorts.
‘But why couldn’t he talk to Bobae in reality?’
If whispers were intercepted, communication in reality should suffice.
Leeha wondered momentarily why even that hadn’t been allowed but had no time to ask now.
Lark was running with all his might from Onyx, and it seemed impossible for him to hold back the enraged Ancient Black Dragon alone.
―Lark! So!? What’s the plan? Can you kill Tiamat with that sword―
―I can gather the Dragon Heart! Tiamat is a creature that doesn’t possess a Dragon Heart, so accordingly, it’s designed to be impossible to kill in― Argh!
―What?
―This sword can summon Tiamat’s Dragon Heart in the area it pierces! In that state, if I use this sword skill… it’s the end for Tiamat. It’s simple! Though, just piercing it is challenging enough― Agh!
A dragon without a Dragon Heart. Leeha recalled seeing Blaugrunn and Kuzgunak’sh for the first time. Kuzgunak’sh revived even when his head was smashed.
Because his Dragon Heart was intact, it wouldn’t die; without the destruction of the Dragon Heart, the Dragon wouldn’t die.
‘But there’s no Heart? This is insane―.’
It was as good as being designed to be unkillable! And considering the difficulty of ‘piercing’ that sword into Tiamat, it was almost as if Middle Earth had created this monster as a practical joke.
―What about Onyx then? If Tiamat dies, would Onyx’s state change or―
―This is insane! Do you really get that far? I’m at a loss for words here. Ha Leeha, you’ve got some really disheartening traits.
―This isn’t the time for that! Just explain quickly!
―Tiamat’s death and Onyx’s empowerment happen simultaneously! Onyx doesn’t turn into Tiamat but can absorb part of the energy from the shattered Dragon Heart! Can you imagine how powerful he’d get if he absorbs just 30% of this twisted worm’s power? I really went through some tough times to get this Dragon Elder in line―
―Skip the useless talk! So! What are we going to do?
―What else! You know better, Ha Leeha! Pierce it, casting time is 15 seconds. Then immediate activation! Dragon Heart begins to collapse, Onyx starts to absorb! Then Ha Leeha―
Clang―!
Lark cut off Onyx’s tail with his sword. He massaged his tingling wrist for a moment and finished whispering to Leeha.
―Do what you do best, Ha Leeha.
TL’s Corner:
What a convoluted scenario.
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Sniping.
Lark wanted Leeha’s sniping skills.
Leeha swallowed nervously. The distance to Onyx was not so far. He could easily shoot.
‘But… That Onyx…’
Would Onyx, who suspected Lark with magic that read whispers, really fall for it so easily?
Moreover, if he could absorb some of Tiamat’s power and immediately utilize that mana?
‘Shield…’
It wouldn’t be as thick as Tiamat’s. However, wasn’t Onyx much more agile than Tiamat?
Leeha gritted his teeth. There were only two options.
One was to immobilize Onyx. If he could have done that in the first place, he wouldn’t be having these troubles now.
“The other option is…”
As Leeha was about to make a regretful expression—
―It’s complete! It’s done, Ha Leeha!
“Ah!?”
Ram Hwayeon’s excited voice echoed in Leeha’s mind.
“You vile creature! I had already anticipated that you would betray us!”
Onyx scolded Lark while attacking him. However, Lark could sufficiently defend against the attack.
The Black Dragon would not kill Lark immediately.
Lark knew this fact as well.
“Is that so? As expected, you are impressive. But you also know, right? If I die, the mission to kill Tiamat is over too?”
“I know that well. But you are quite intelligent for a human. You should know what will happen to you if you don’t kill Tiamat here.”
However, Onyx was not an easy dragon to deal with either.
If he didn’t kill Tiamat? Lark looked at the ground.
The front line of the Chimeras had advanced much further west than initially.
It meant the Sacred Alliance was being pushed back.
That was natural. One of the dragons that had been blocking the various mana chunks intermittently coming from Tiamat was Bahamut, after all.
With no one to block Tiamat’s magic, and the morale of the Metal Dragons drastically falling after Bahamut’s retreat, the Chromatic Dragons were rampaging with excitement.
In other words, if Lark didn’t kill Tiamat, humanity’s defeat was a certainty.
And what would happen to him?
“I guess I’ll go down in Middle Earth’s history.”
He would forever be remembered as the ‘Traitor of Humanity’. Everything he had built up to now would collapse.
He would have to permanently quit the game called Middle Earth.
“Hmph, and you still think you have leisure.”
Green particles gathered in front of Onyx’s mouth. Lark urgently shouted.
“If I die! If you fire that breath at me, it’s all over—”
“I know. So I won’t be firing it at you.”
“What—”
Phwoosh─!
Onyx’s acidic breath was aimed at the ground. The breath pierced through the shield and descended, covering the users and chimeras on the ground.
It was surprising enough that it penetrated Tiamat’s shield, but it only melted the users without affecting the chimeras at all.
“Crazy…”
“I’ve already matched the Chimeras to the energy. Humans will inevitably see me spewing breath here. They will also see you. Then you will never be able to return.”
Onyx was confident.
Lark had left Onyx under Shin Nara’s surveillance while he logged out.
Shin Nara had reported no significant changes, but clearly, Onyx had managed to synchronize with the Demon King’s Fragments, bypassing their surveillance.
“Ugh… damn old dragon…”
“Fire. You have no other choice left, Lark. It’s eight thousand years too early for you to defy me.”
Onyx was smiling.
He leisurely turned his head and looked somewhere on the ground.
“If you were counting on that Ha Leeha guy as a last resort, it’s even more premature.”
“Pft, I heard you were defeated before. Haha, I should have seen that… No, if you were already defeated once—.”
『Do you think I’ll fall for it twice? 〈Absolute Shield〉, 〈Immune to Harm〉, 〈Protect from Normal Missiles〉, 〈Darkest Barrier〉.』
The Black Dragon enveloped itself in multiple layers of shields.
Lark bit his lip. A Black Dragon who had been defeated once would definitely be cautious the second time.
‘It’s not like I told you to take the shot on purpose. Tsk, the AI is quite formidable after all.’
『Attack, Lark.』
Lark scanned the ground. Could Ha Leeha really pierce through this? Could this attack succeed?
‘Hitting the target isn’t the issue. If it’s Ha Leeha… he’ll definitely hit.’
The problem was the damage.
Could these shields be penetrated?
Lark didn’t have much time to think. A breath was building up again in Onyx’s mouth.
If he managed to shoot a second and third breath, all the users would look up at Tiamat. And they would clearly see Lark atop it.
By then, even if they killed Tiamat, they might not be able to clear the misunderstanding.
‘Damn it—.’
—10 minutes! Lark, just hold out for 10 minutes!
—What? Ha Leeha?
—10 minutes is enough! By then… we can kill Onyx.
—W-what, what are you—
Lark tried to look at Leeha. Did he have some sort of plan?
Dozens of scenarios generated in Lark’s mind simultaneously. And then, all of them were instantly dismissed.
—Trust me.
Various scenarios stemmed from his insecurity.
If Ha Leeha asked Lark to trust him to this extent, then there was no need to worry anymore.
—Trust you or not, if you fail, it’s the end for both of us—but I might even be obliterated as a public enemy of Middle Earth— Ha!
—La-Lark!?
『No, for you, physical pain will be more effective. Considering the significant mental resilience you possess, burdening you might not be enough.』
Lark couldn’t respond to Leeha’s whisper.
Barely maintaining his stance, a thick green mist gathered around Lark.
Onyx cast another spell on both of Lark’s calves, inflicting the ‘Abnormal Status: Poisoned.’
“Aaaargh!”
Hiss…
Smoke rose from Lark’s calves. It wasn’t from flames.
What had penetrated even his armor was just liquid.
『Do you wish to feel the agony of your body melting?』
“If I die—you too—.”
『〈Great Heal〉, 〈Acid Ball〉.』
“Urgh— aaar—.”
Onyx simultaneously cast Heal on Lark and sent a highly acidic ball his way.
Tendons bulged from Lark’s neck.
The area below his ankles was melting.
—Lark! Are you—getting attacked?
—Don’t worry… about me, focus on—your task.
『Indeed. I won’t kill you. But I do know a pain worse than death.』
“Kuh, haha… Just perfect. I’m used to—this kind of suffering— aaaaargh!”
Two of Onyx’s claws pierced through Lark’s thigh. As soon as he withdrew them, he used Heal to immediately mend the wound.
『Attack.』
Lark didn’t attack.
Onyx, satisfied, injected a neurotoxic poison into Lark’s body.
Abnormal Status: Poisoned (Enhanced).
Lark couldn’t even scream due to the pain of asphyxiation and the contraction of his entire body’s blood vessels. He had to gasp desperately for a breath.
―”Lark-ssi! Are― are you okay?! I told you to come with me! You’re under attack right now, aren’t you?”
―”At…… tack? By whom…… no―?”
―”Yes? You’re being attacked right now, Lark-ssi!”
―”Nara… only… worry about yourself, and stay… far away.”
―”Lark-ssi! The synchronization rate! You said it was 93%! But if you’re under such an attack—”
―”Lies― of course. Ha, haha.”
Lark, mustering all his strength, whispered to Shin Nara.
『Hmm. So you want to appear strong to the female. You should have kept that woman with you from the start. What a shame. Or maybe this is part of your pathetic plan. Waiting for when I’m not around.』
“Eat… shit.”
Lark extended his left middle finger towards Onyx.
Onyx looked at Lark, a meaningful smile on his face. He then lightly exhaled towards Lark’s extended left middle finger.
Though a very small amount of acidic breath, it was enough to melt the skin and muscle of Lark’s finger in an instant, exposing the bone.
“Aaaaaah─!”
Unable to scream, trembling violently, Lark had to watch his finger melt away.
His vision, reddened by the extreme HP loss, no longer permitted him to even see his own finger.
Only at that point did Onyx use a healing spell.
His torture technique, controlling everything precisely up to the brink of death, revealed that this was not his first time in such a situation.
『Interesting. I’m curious to see if you can endure 10 minutes without stabbing Tiamat. Satisfy my curiosity.』
Those ten urgent minutes for Leeha, those ten heart-wrenching minutes for Shin Nara. To both of them, the ten minutes were a long time.
But for Lark, who had a synchronization rate of 93%, those ten minutes would be longer than an eternity.
“Ha… haha.”
On his pain-contorted face, a smile could no longer be formed.
* * *
“Hwayeon!”
“Leeha!”
Leeha finally met Ram Hwayeon.
Ram Hwayeon and the users of the Hwahong Guild were moving with something. There was certainly no shortage of guild members.
However, Leeha frowned.
“Is this all?”
“Most of the users who were supposed to participate fled! Since shortly after Bahamut was taken down, there’s been a significant drop in our forces!”
“Damn it… But with just this many—.”
There were about a hundred people at a glance. Even so, Leeha shook his head.
“We have to succeed at the first attempt. We won’t get a second chance.”
“Then… I understand. I’ll gather more.”
“W-wait!”
Ram Hwayeon headed towards the battlefield.
Leeha instinctively grabbed her shoulder.
Entering the middle of the battlefield is no easy task. Especially for someone like Ram Hwayeon with a low level, even a single chimera could be a deadly enemy.
“Do you know how dangerous it is there! At least take some Hwahong Guild members with you—.”
“Leeha.”
“Y-yes?”
Ram Hwayeon’s eyes were as red as her hair. Leeha looked into her eyes.
Her deep eyes seemed to burn like fire.
“All of us going won’t make a difference; you know that. And if something happens… It’s better if I die alone.”
Feeling the determination that even most men couldn’t muster, Leeha couldn’t say anything more.
“Be careful.”
“I’ll be back in 10 minutes.”
Ram Hwayeon immediately started moving, using Blink. Even though she was using her skills continuously, she was undoubtedly slower than Ram Hwajung.
Leeha then sent a whisper to Lark. Lark heard about the 10 minutes from Leeha at this point.
Just as Lark trusted Leeha, Leeha also trusted Ram Hwayeon.
Ten minutes.
Everything had to proceed smoothly within that time frame.
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“I need to gather people somehow… Considering the necessary number, this much wouldn’t be enough—”
He couldn’t rely solely on Ram Hwayeon. At that moment, Leeha thought even he needed to take action.
Ding… Ding…
“Hmm?!”
Leeha’s ears picked up a strange sound. Though it had been a while, he could immediately tell it wasn’t a pleasant “alarm.”
“Th-there’s something—”
“It’s coming… It’s heading this way.”
Members of the Hwajung guild began to murmur. Leeha also looked towards the direction. A figure lightly leaped over the chaotic battlefield of chimeras and users, landing on the ground gracefully.
That figure was heading towards them from a spot even further behind the front line.
“So you were here, Ha Leeha.”
“… Le!”
Bluebeard who had been roaming around looking for Leeha hadn’t missed the Murti-Warhead Shot Leeha fired to signal Lark. Leeha swallowed dryly.
There was no need to doubt that Ram Hwayeon would gather the required number of people within ten minutes. But what good would it do?
‘If I get caught by Bluebeard, it’s all over. Even if there are people left…’
“What’s that behind you? It looks like quite an interesting device.”
‘If that gets destroyed, we lose.’
Bluebeard was looking beyond Leeha at some object. Leeha didn’t turn his head. The moment he showed interest in it, Bluebeard might focus on that object more than killing Leeha directly.
“Well, I find it more interesting that I can kill you right here.”
“Huh? Haha, Ha Leeha! Oh my, oh my! Haven’t you grown! How dare you spout such words!”
Leeha raised Black Bass and aimed at Bluebeard. Le’s attention, which had been on the object beyond Leeha, now focused entirely on Leeha.
Leeha whispered to a user in Hwahong Guild whose ID he recalled.
“Move that very slowly. Make sure Bluebeard doesn’t notice. And don’t get involved in the fight.”
“Huh? B-but Ha Leeha-nim, you alone—”
“That’s better. It’s much better than all of you being slaughtered.”
The reason why Ram Hwayeon went alone was the same. Each and every member of Hwahong Guild was a critically important asset now. Rather than sacrificing them, it was better for Leeha himself to deal with Bluebeard.
“Of course, I can’t die either…”
Click—!
The loud crack of Black Bass’ bolt made Le pause.
“What’s wrong with saying such things? Hmm, come to think of it, you seem to walk uncomfortably. How about… I find you a cane?”
“Arrogant—”
Swoosh—!
Bluebeard lunged at Leeha in an instant. Leeha didn’t stand idle either.
Boom—!
A shot aimed directly ahead. Bluebeard sidestepped and dodged it effortlessly. Using the minimal necessary movements, his speed didn’t decrease at all.
Due to the nature of the field, Leeha couldn’t use three-dimensional maneuvers, so he attempted to change the battleground by escaping with Ghost in the Shell.
Afterward, using the Fear Spirit and Murti-Warhead Shot sequentially, he hoped to create a winning chance.
“〈Ghost—”
“Haah—!!”
A black streak emanated from Bluebeard’s hand. Sparks flew wildly from his hand as he grasped it.
He swung it right away. Bluebeard was smiling.
*Buaaa────!*
The magical energy was so intense that even the grass wilted merely from its touch.
The sheer force was powerful enough to cut down small flowers with the wind pressure.
“What the…?”
The problem was that Bluebeard was slashing the space in a completely different location from where Leeha was.
Leeha canceled his skill and observed Bluebeard.
He slashed another location. The immense wind pressure slightly touched Leeha but that was all. He didn’t take any significant damage.
“Hmm?”
Bluebeard shook his head. The smile disappeared from his face in an instant. At the same time, an entirely opposite expression began to surface.
It wasn’t just simple anger.
The look of shame, humiliation, and the self-loathing that spawned from them contorted Bluebeard’s expression.
Leeha finally noticed Bluebeard’s odd behavior.
“Ha Leeha, are you okay?”
The White-Eyed Spiritualist quickly passed over Bluebeard’s head and approached Leeha.
“Prea!”
Prea quickly whispered without even looking at Leeha.
“―Anger, destruction, and might don’t work. Even the highest level of Spirits of Chaos could only deceive him twice.”
“―Does that mean there’s no effect at all?”
“―I don’t know what would happen with Ha Leeha’s skill, but… it’s impossible for the Spirits of Chaos to help any further.”
The disappearance of all dark attribute spirits around her, and the appearance of ordinary spirits, indicated as much.
Seeing the highest level spirits of fire, water, wind, and earth, users of the Hwahong Guild were astonished.
“Are all four elements at the highest level?”
“―According to our information, it should have been two high-grade and two mid-grade spirits.”
However, this wasn’t necessarily good news.
It also meant Prea, who had even deceived Hwahong’s information network, could not afford to be picky any longer.
“It’s been quite a while since I last saw that wretch Karghasha… This is a perfect opportunity. I need to extract Karghasha’s whereabouts from Prea.”
The trembling body of Le began to calm down.
All his feelings of humiliation and the resulting anger were gradually turning into rationality.
For Leeha and Prea, this wasn’t a good sign at all.
A cold Bluebeard was more terrifying than any other presence.
There was only one thing left to do.
“Elerestra, Celestine, Selena, noeanen. Attack!”
*Tokwaa────!*
Leeha’s bullet and the highest level spirits of the four elements all charged at Le.
* * *
Bluebeard lightly leapt backward and swung his magical energy.
Unlike the consistent thickness and length that would come from a staff, the wriggling, uncontrolled magical energy aimed at the highest level wind spirit at the forefront.
*Kuugugug!*
Simultaneously with the wind spirit’s ascent, the rock shield formed by the earth spirit was cut through.
Seeing the rock of significant thickness being sliced like tofu, Leeha was impressed, but it wasn’t the time to admire the enemy’s attacks.
As Bluebeard faced the earth spirit, the fire and water spirits cooperated to attack from both sides.
Confident that he could handle all three at once, Le extended his dark magical energy with both hands.
Though he assumed a stance to swing it like an elongated crescent blade, Leeha didn’t miss the opening.
“Damn. This is annoying.”
Bluebeard halted all movements and immediately took evasive action.
BANG────────!
By the time the gunshot resounded, Le was already in the air.
Six massive fireballs were fired in quick succession from the hands of the top-grade fire spirit.
Boom, boom, boom!
Le shortened his black demonic energy, wielded it in both hands, and effortlessly deflected the fireballs before landing smoothly.
“… It’s been a while, this feeling.”
Then he looked at the ground beneath his feet. What had been a solid field moments ago had turned into a swamp, absorbing up to Le’s ankles.
The top-grade water and earth spirits were not just for healing or defense.
They were spirits capable of practically combining the respective elements.
Of course, Leeha did not miss this opportunity.
“Got you! 〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉.”
BOOM────────!
What happened was in a very brief moment.
Bluebeard had discarded all his demonic energy and immediately grabbed his hat, angling it so that the empty space faced the incoming direction of the Multi-Warhead Shot.
─────────────…
The empty space that usually covered Bluebeard’s head expanded infinitely, swallowing all the incoming missiles in darkness.
At least, that’s how it appeared to Leeha.
The barrage of 50 bullets was not broadly dispersed, yet it was enough to cover Bluebeard’s entire body.
But could it really be possible to absorb all the bullets through the small hole of the hat, which was smaller than that range?
“It’s not checkmate, but it was an interesting move.”
Bluebeard twirled his hat and placed it back on his head.
Then, he pulled one foot out of the swamp and stomped on the ground. In that moment, the swamp was restored to its normal state.
‘This is Le…’
Witnessing Le’s full power after such a long time, Leeha swallowed dryly. He had thought his attack was effective.
Utilizing four top-grade spirits and waiting for an opening himself, yet Bluebeard, despite his ‘abnormal status,’ remained unfazed.
‘No, still, with this much, it should be enough to give it a shot…’
“You’ve also improved your skill with spirits, Prea.”
“Stop talking nonsense! I have never shown everything to you from the start…”
“No, no, I mean it. Pretending you only summoned four top-grade spirits… you kept using the higher-ranking light spirit to aim at my eyes. The one probably watching from nearby is the high-grade lightning spirit, right? Or is it the top-grade? It’s confusing.”
“―Ugh.”
Le raised his arm slightly, blocking the sky.
Leeha, with wide eyes, looked at Prea.
Only four spirits summoned for this battle? Prea wasn’t an inexperienced user.
“Prea…?”
“Ha, ha, as expected― Le is still Le. I intended to end it quickly…”
The white-eyed spiritualist was gasping for breath.
Four top-grade elemental spirits and high-grade light and lightning spirits, which Le hadn’t noticed, yet hiding within the shadows of the battle were higher-ranking snow and ice spirits.
Summoning and using a total of seven different kinds of spirits, she put everything into the attack, yet none of her efforts seemed to land.
Even considering that Leeha had occasionally fired shots to disrupt the timing, and the final attack of the Multi-Warhead Shot?!
It all culminated in a short-term battle, exhausting every resource!
“Haha… It’s already been 3 minutes. Can you hold out for another 2 minutes like this?”
The gigantic demonic energy coalesced once again in Bluebeard’s hands.
In that electrifying moment, Leeha could clearly see his hands.
Bluebeard’s palms were riddled with pitch-black, cracking marks. At that moment, Leeha realized.
“… You’re in the same situation, aren’t you?”
“What?”
“You can’t keep holding that, can you?”
Even Le, without a staff, could not freely use it.
The continuous sparks flying from Bluebeard’s hands, those black sparks were wounding Bluebeard’s hands.
It wasn’t just Prea who intended to conclude the battle quickly.
Despite Leeha’s pointed remark, Le’s expression did not change at all.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 959
Having observed Bluebeard breathing so serenely, Leeha finally allowed a smile to stretch across his face.
“Hehe, Le, your acting was just too clumsy. That poker face of yours is evidence enough.”
“Arrogant…”
Bluebeard intended to charge at Leeha immediately.
His speed was so fast that even Prea, a spiritualist, couldn’t react in time. However, Leeha had been waiting for this exact moment.
The moment when Bluebeard, having exhausted his strength while fighting Prea, would focus solely on him.
The highest-level Chaos spirit had ‘temporarily’ obeyed his command.
The highest-level spirits of the four elements could exert pressure on Le. If so?
“〈Familiar Fear: Designate〉.”
What about a highest-level fear spirit?
Le, who had been charging straight toward Leeha, had to confront the uncanny face overlaid on Leeha’s own.
“I already know about Uncanny’s presence!”
Despite facing each other directly, Le knew of Leeha’s skill set.
The fact that Bluebeard had closed his eyes before Leeha had even cast his skill was proof!
He brandished his magical sword without hesitation.
Since the Uncanny skill would only take effect by making eye contact, it dissipated without any effect, torn apart by the magical sword.
“I know that too.”
Leeha was aware that Bluebeard had some level of immunity and measures against a skill he had experienced once.
“What—?”
The moment Le broke through the dissipating Uncanny, he was met with a bullet.
Le hurriedly raised his magical sword to block the bullet. Seeing this, Leeha smiled.
“This is checkmate! Devour, black.”
―Hehehe… Finally, I shall taste the Demon King’s Fragment.
Immediately after using the skill 〈Familiar Fear〉, Leeha launched his prepared ‘next’ attack.
The 〈Burn Out〉 bullet targeted Le.
〈Burn Out〉
Description: Halsyzrik, the queen of the Spirits of Lethargy and Sloth, dislikes combat. Instead of overpowering her enemies, she wanted them to behave similarly to her. Her ability to strip away all hostility and passion from her enemies was rumored to be so overbearing that even the Water Spirit King Elaim found it unbearable.
Effect: 1. Limits the movement of the target (within a radius of 2 meters).
2. Reduces the target’s strength and agility stats by 90%.
3. Restricts skill usage (tenfold casting time, effective duration reduced to 10%).
Mana: 1,500
Duration: 1 minute
Cooldown: 1 hour
“Ugh—what—?”
Le’s charge froze on the spot.
More precisely, he began to move very slowly.
Even those movements couldn’t exceed a 2-meter radius. If that’s the case?
“〈Multi-Warhead Shot〉.”
“Attack, everyone!”
All that remained was concentrated firepower.
The 50 multi-bullets and the powers unleashed by seven different spirits hurtled toward the immobilized Le.
Due to his drastically reduced stats, his hands barely reached his hat.
“Damn it all—!”
Le screamed as he watched all sorts of magic and bullets rain down on him.
────────────!!!!
* * *
“Crazy talk! Even if it’s Lady Ram Hwayeon, how can she say something like that?”
“If we retreat now? Even if we are just level 160 players, we are still worth something as healers!”
“Yeah! Are they looking down on us because we’re low level?”
Despite the chaotic skill casting, the players shouted at Ram Hwayeon. Even amid the backlash from the players positioned at the rear of the front lines, Ram Hwayeon stood firm.
“That’s why it’s necessary! We need your power, your precious strength to gather and… defeat that monstrous creature!”
“What are we supposed to do with our power? I don’t have any skills that can reach that far!”
“Stop with the nonsense and give me a mana recovery potion! Or at least step aside!”
“Ugh!”
Healer users pushed Ram Hwayeon aside and stepped forward.
Ram Hwayeon didn’t get angry. If this were any other day, the users wouldn’t have treated her with such disrespect. These were just regular users who hadn’t even turned off their combat assistance systems, the most common type of players in Middle Earth.
Involvement in such a large-scale event war was only a source of simple thrill and fun for them. They could fight believing that a single heal, a single buff, or a single attack skill from them had a significant impact on the “Worldview of Middle Earth”.
Under normal circumstances, most users wouldn’t experience such thrills and excitement! In reality, even if they deserted the battlefield right now, it wouldn’t be a disaster, as Ram Hwayeon’s calculations already accounted for that. But it was challenging to convince users who saw themselves as heroes of Middle Earth.
“Chimeras and Manticores are coming this way!”
“Prepare from here! A Chromatic Dragon has broken off from the central area and is heading this way!”
“Tanks, step up! We’re all going to die!”
Chaos, pandemonium, a mess. The uproar was not just confined to Ram Hwayeon’s location. Users were noisily fighting on all fronts, so she couldn’t call on other users who were usually close to Leeha.
If the main users holding back the incoming Chimeras left this position, that front line would completely collapse.
‘That’s why regular users are needed this time. We can’t pull out rankers or outsider-level users.’
These users could fight more skillfully and perfectly than ten to twenty regular users, maintaining the front lines. Turning off the combat assistance system and heightening assimilation rates made them superior to regular users at the same level, not to mention those users with higher levels and greater fame who held even more powerful cards.
They couldn’t be pulled out.
Somehow, they had to convince regular users. But what could possibly snap them out of their ‘thrill addiction’ state?
Just as an anxious Ram Hwayeon was about to act, a violet light flashed beside her.
“Unni.”
“Hwajung!”
Ram Hwajung looked around and asked, “Oppa’s things?”
“They’re here, but the people—right! Everyone! Please, pay attention here one more time!”
Ram Hwayeon grabbed Ram Hwajung’s shoulder and shouted loudly.
Ram Hwajung, quickly assessing the situation, flew into the air with her sister.
As people’s gazes gathered, Ram Hwayeon continued speaking.
“What you all need to do is the same as what rank 6’s Ram Hwajung is about to do! It’s more valuable and important than using a single heal or skill here! We need your strength to kill Tiamat!”
“Hey, what are we supposed to do about the battle if we leave? Without this skill, the front line will collapse!”
“Ram Hwajung is just family anyway! Instead of that, cast a Blizzard or something…”
“Hwajung!”
Ram Hwajung froze the mouth of the user criticizing her and her sister.
While the ice fragments around his mouth quickly fell off, the atmosphere grew more hostile.
“What are you doing! Stop interfering and go command the Paleos or something!”
“Even if it’s do-or-die, how can you expect us to go along with some gamble we don’t even know about?!”
“Yeah! At least tell us what we’re supposed to do! Who’d go just because you said so!”
“I’m going.”
Amidst the chaotic uproar of users, an unexpected voice was heard.
The crowd, criticizing the two sisters floating in the air, turned their heads in unison.
Naturally, the two sisters hovering in the air saw him first.
“Who the hell is lying…”
“It’s real.”
“W-What?”
He leaped easily, pushing past the users.
A user so fast that you couldn’t see him casting magic. He naturally floated in the air and approached Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung.
“It’s Lee Jiwon!”
“What the heck! Why is Lee Jiwon here!?”
As if the noise from the users was unimportant, the man with a somewhat somber face alternated his gaze between Ram Hwayeon and Ram Hwajung.
“Lee Jiwon.”
“Annoying.”
“Hwa, Hwajung!”
Ram Hwayeon quickly covered Ram Hwajung’s mouth. Lee Jiwon paid no attention to Ram Hwajung’s provocation.
Ram Hwayeon swiftly apologized to Lee Jiwon and asked him.
“How did you get here…?”
“Stayed low until defeat was inevitable. They said they were capturing Tiamat. How? Do you have a method?”
Where had he been and what had he done all this time?
He responded quickly. Ram Hwayeon nodded while pondering Lee Jiwon’s actions.
He hadn’t appeared on any front lines. Had he been hiding, observing the course of events?
Or had he been waiting for an opportunity to capture Tiamat or Le by himself?
“Yes.”
“With Hwahong’s skills— not even a chance with this ‘shrimp’.”
“You, die—”
“Hwajung!”
Ram Hwajung tried to rush at Lee Jiwon, but she stopped at her sister’s stern command.
Ram Hwayeon spoke to Lee Jiwon.
“I can’t do it alone. We need everyone’s strength.”
“Words like ‘everyone’s strength’ alone won’t crack Tiamat’s skull.”
Lee Jiwon nodded toward Tiamat as he spoke. Ram Hwayeon also nodded in full understanding.
“That’s right. Ultimately… Ha Leeha will kill him.”
There was a reason why Ram Hwayeon didn’t mention Leeha’s name often.
Despite significant achievements, many still doubted Leeha’s abilities.
Claiming that he had destroyed Bluebeard’s staff only offered a temporary morale boost. For users who had never faced Bluebeard, they only responded with, “Is it real?”
The reactions of the surrounding users were similar.
“Huh? Ha Leeha? No way—”
“No matter what, hitting that dragon with a gun—”
“I knew it. If Ha Leeha does it, I’m in.”
Ha Leeha dealing with Tiamat.
Ram Hwayeon’s statement was genuinely believed by only one person there.
Lee Jiwon’s words stirred a huge reaction swiftly.
“—Wh, what?! Lee Jiwon! A ranker like you!?”
“Someone who can effortlessly handle two chromatic dragons is saying this! Then rather than—”
“Folks.”
Lee Jiwon spoke.
At once, the surroundings fell quiet. He was a user with enough presence to make this happen.
Still holding firmly to the second rank, he was a South Korean solo gamer who didn’t care about outside opinions.
“This is a definite gain. Won’t you join?”
His single comment wavered the hearts of the users. Ram Hwayeon sensed the change in atmosphere.
“This is the only opportunity! The longer you delay, the more users will die due to Tiamat— or the chimeras! To save them, you must act now!”
They still wanted to be regarded as “heroes of Middle Earth”.
Especially with their role models Lee Jiwon and Ram Hwajung present here.
“The strength of each and every one of you will save Middle Earth! I and Lee Jiwon here can guarantee it!”
So, it was only necessary to stroke that sentiment.
The users, whose focus was waning, were now listening intently to Ram Hwayeon’s words, having even stopped using their skills.
Without using skills, there was no impact on the front lines. The moment they unconsciously realized this, there was no more time for hesitation.
“Damn it, let’s go!”
“Yeah, let’s go! Whatever it is, if it helps, that’s good!”
“My jaw almost snapped using skills. This is a relief! Let’s go, everyone!”
The exodus from the very back of the front line by ‘regular users’ rapidly followed suit.
Lee Jiwon’s joining in, Ram Hwayeon’s guarantee, Ram Hwajung and Lee Jiwon aiming to kill Tiamat… All they had to do was add a spoon and reap the benefits…
Though rumors began to deviate from Ram Hwayeon’s intention, she didn’t mind.
At this moment, what was crucial was the users’ voluntary participation.
“Let’s go!”
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A seemingly endless line of users trailed behind Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Lee Jiwon.
When they arrived at the location where the Hwahong Guild members and the ‘item’ were situated, an overwhelming scene of battle remnants unfolded before their eyes.
“Ha Leeha!?”
“… Damn.”
“Wh-what happened? What is this? Prea, you—.”
“Phew… Even feeding it for a minute straight didn’t kill it.”
“What? What didn’t?”
Ram Hwayeon quickly inquired.
Prea sighed, looking at Ram Hwayeon, and Leeha glanced between her, Ram Hwajung, and Lee Jiwon, then gave a brief summary of the situation.
“Le was here. And… he escaped.”
Users within earshot of Leeha’s voice stirred briefly. They couldn’t fully grasp what Leeha meant.
However, taking Leeha’s words at face value, even Ram Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung, and Lee Jiwon seemed shocked.
“Even so, didn’t ‘our’ combination work? We’ve confirmed it once, so—.”
“No, it’s meaningless. We had to kill him this time… Such a plan won’t work twice.”
The duration of 〈Burn Out〉 was merely a minute. Leeha felt that time slip away too quickly.
‘If only I had one more minute… If only I could have used Multi-Warhead Bullet one more time!’
The cooldown for Multi-Warhead Bullet was one minute. Faced with the inevitability of being showered by Leeha’s Multi-Warhead Bullet, Bluebeard focused on defending against it, even at the risk of exposing himself to the elemental spirits’ attacks.
Despite the explosion and numerous assaults from the four elements, Le survived.
And then he fled.
Prea attempted to find some meaning in the battle, but Leeha shrugged it off nonchalantly.
It wouldn’t work twice.
In the rare chance they found an opportunity, Leeha hoped it was like winning the lottery by chance, but Middle Earth never allowed coincidences to resolve everything.
“Amazing, chief. Bluebeard… almost turned to rags…”
“He was practically stripped bare. His top was completely torn, and those wounds all over—.”
“All that blue splatter on the ground is Le’s blood!”
To the Hwahong Guild members who witnessed the entire battle, it held a different meaning.
To have pinned down the great Bluebeard and beat him without letting him move?
It was a significant hope and an incredible achievement!
However, Leeha still wore a somber expression.
Clap—! Clap—!
“Phew! Enough, what’s lost is lost! How much time has passed?”
“Time— 8 minutes 40 seconds! Within 10 minutes!”
Ram Hwayeon recited the duration since she left and returned. Leeha nodded.
“Okay! Everyone! Thank you all for coming here! I will tell you the only way to catch Tiamat!”
And so, he began revealing his ‘secret.’ How to deal with Tiamat.
What could be done at this point with so many users below level 200, and some even around level 150?
Users who heard Leeha’s brief explanation screamed if he was crazy, but their protests soon died down.
“For real?”
“Yes. For real. Lark is… already there.”
As Leeha pointed in one direction, everyone’s eyes followed. However, few could see Lark and Onyx from the distance.
“Okay. Everyone except for the ‘magic-runt’ should fall back. Let’s go!”
Lee Jiwon was the first to take his position. Once he and Ram Hwajung settled, the users began to move hesitantly as well.
『Here are the key points! It’s not difficult! It’s like using a skill! Only—.』
Ram Hwayeon floated into the air, tore an amplification scroll, and shouted.
Leeha also took his place by their side.
—Lark! We’re ready! It should only take less than a minute from now!
The one who had to be the starting point of this entire journey. Yet Lark’s response did not come.
Through 〈Eagle Eyes〉 and the scope, Leeha confirmed that Lark indeed stood atop Tiamat’s main body, along with Onyx.
—L-Lark!
Leeha wanted to believe he saw it wrong.
Lark was naked.
All his armor had melted away, and his flesh was melting, about to expose his bones, before suddenly healing.
―Too… late…
―Now! Everything is ready now!
―Hng… I was prepared for this… but I’m really gonna die―
Lark’s voice trembled.
Leeha suddenly realized how much pain Lark had been enduring.
He was the one who had killed Chromatic Dragon alongside Shin Nara. No, even before that, he had managed to suppress the Paleos without any issues.
There was no way his synchronization rate was low.
He must have felt all kinds of pain almost as if it were reality!
However, unable to run away or escape by logging out, Lark had endured the 10 minutes Leeha had asked for by gritting his teeth and relying on sheer willpower.
―Don’t… Don’t say anything! Just the skill! Shove the sword into Tiamat and just use the skill!
―Okay… Grr, tell Nara―
―What?
―Don’t… cry― quickly. Tell her.
Lark’s words came out brokenly. Leeha understood what he meant.
How could Shin Nara, who had been with him all along, not know that Lark was in pain?
How could she not know his synchronization rate?
‘Damn it…’
She must have been watching the battlefield closely enough to catch the moment when Leeha had impulsively tried to move in.
She must have seen it all.
How Lark was being tormented.
Unable to approach, unable to help, unable to touch, and even having to pretend to be fine to keep from showing anything in the whispers.
―Okay! I’ll tell her! I’ll whisper it to Nara―
―Anyway… Kuuh, I have to― die for this to end.
―What― Lark! You’re going to die?
While hearing Leeha’s voice, Lark steadied his breathing.
『It’s amazing that your mind hasn’t collapsed.』
“I… Hrk, won.”
『Hmm?』
“Stupid― dragon.”
Lark barely managed to move his arms, with the flesh stripped off and red muscle exposed. It seemed like he was simply collapsing.
However, Lark’s sword lightly pierced through Tiamat’s thick scales.
Onyx did not take pleasure in watching Lark’s actions.
『What has Ha Leeha done. Gathering humans― what does he think he can achieve by doing that.』
The Black Dragon was tense, but Lark no longer paid any attention to him.
―Take… care of things. Hnn… I can’t bear this pain any longer.
Was Lark prepared to die from the start? Or perhaps from the moment Leeha asked him to buy time?
Or was it from the moment he had tried to persuade Onyx?
In any case, Lark never believed he could clear the quest alive, kill Tiamat, make his second class transition, and return safely.
―… Understood. Leave it to me.
Leeha whispered.
Lark tried to smile upon hearing those words.
His facial muscles were all torn, ending with only a slight twitch, making an unimpressive expression. However, it did not hinder him from using his skill.
“〈Dragon Slayer, Six-Headed Dragon〉.”
All the users saw it.
Above the cosmic being that had covered the sky, an aurora, cosmic in its energy as well, began to spread.
The aurora unfurled across a vast area vast enough to cover the entire body of Tiamat.
As the rainbow-colored blanket spread across the sky became clearer, it began to descend onto a single point.
A single point on Tiamat’s body.
That point was where Lark was located.
“Kyahhh—!”
“Bailephus!”
As soon as the aurora began to be absorbed, Tiamat started to writhe.
Chunks of mana that burst intermittently shot out faster and stronger.
Tiamat’s radiance didn’t distinguish between friend and foe.
A flying chromatic dragon lost one of its wings upon being hit by a chunk of mana, and twenty chimeras, trying to absorb the users, were instantly obliterated.
Leeha watched the scene while gritting his teeth.
The opportunity Lark had secured with his life was one that wouldn’t come again.
If Onyx escaped from this, everything would be over.
If Leeha didn’t completely pierce through Onyx’s multiple layers of shields and relentlessly track him down, the nightmare would repeat.
“〈Snow Storm〉.”
Leeha used a skill quietly.
White snow began to fall from the sky, rippling with aurora. Although the snow clouds were vast, they covered only about half of Tiamat’s body.
However, within that range, Lark and Onyx were certainly included. That was enough.
Tiamat was not Leeha’s target.
Leeha aimed at that spot.
“Everyone, get ready! 7 seconds, 6 seconds!”
Ram Hwayeon commanded the people while watching Leeha. The device made by Bottleneck was a massive singular apparatus.
At the apex of the fan-shaped device stood Leeha. The wings of the device spread out widely, with users gathered in a fan shape.
The formation extended back from Lee Jiwon and Ram Hwajung, each person placing their hand on the back of the person in front.
At the muzzle of the Black Bass, white energy coalesced.
“Concentrate! If even one person’s mana is severed, the supply won’t hold! Think of it as casting a skill, and relax! Just make sure not to let go! 3 seconds, 2 seconds—.”
The snow was about to touch the ground. To Leeha, this was a practiced timing.
The snow must not touch the ground.
If it did, both users and NPCs could get caught up in it.
If Onyx couldn’t be bound and killed, there was only one other way.
To melt everything with an attack so vast that Onyx couldn’t evade it.
Normally, this wouldn’t be possible. Leeha’s total mana, especially after spending more than half of it against Le, wouldn’t allow such an attack.
But what had Bottleneck made?
“1 second! Supply the mana!”
Once, Ram Hwajung had captured ice ostriches with the guild members of Fire Red using a ‘mana supplier,’ transferring the guild members’ mana to herself to cast a blizzard that she couldn’t do alone.
Leeha had calculated precisely this in Ram Hwayeon’s office that day.
What if he made the mana supplier bigger, allowing him to receive the mana of the users?
『Ha ha ha! If I just absorb the Queen’s Heart—Bahamut and the Metal Dragons could be wiped out this very day—.』
“〈White Reaper〉.”
At the moment when the aurora, absorbed by Lark’s sword, was cut off, a white beam shot out from the muzzle of the Black Bass.
The beam, stretching toward the black Tiamat, covered the space.
At that moment, fanfare echoed throughout Middle Earth, and a new notice was updated on the official Middle Earth homepage.
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 961
Chapter 961
However, the users who were logged into the game could not know that the official website had been updated.
More than anything, they could not understand the current situation and were simply perplexed.
“What exactly did I just see?”
“… My mana is zero. All my mana was completely drained. I didn’t even use a skill…”
“What was that ‘white cube’ we just saw? It looked like a bug.”
“A part of the sky turned white like a sliced cake…”
“I wasn’t the only one who saw that, right?”
What the users saw was a split-second moment.
They saw the entirely black Tiamat that had been filling their upper field of vision until now. They saw the snowflakes blowing towards the writhing cosmic entity. They even saw the laser-like light shooting towards it.
And after that?
The moment they thought the laser might have reached the vicinity of Tiamat, a part of the sky turned stark white as if it had been cut away.
Not a single person understood that the laser had infinitely divided and dominated all the space.
Even though Leeha had informed them that his skill would shoot and infinitely divide, no one had perfectly understood it.
Of course, the ‘process’ was not at all important to the users.
This was because the results that clearly showed what had happened were unfolding right in front of their eyes.
“Tiamat…”
“It looks like only the fishhead and tail are left, and the body is gone!”
The six gigantic eels that had filled their view were now reduced to just their heads, some parts of their necks, and a portion of their tails.
A significant part of their long, massive bodies that connected their heads and tails had disappeared as if deleted.
“Huff, huff…”
You have leveled up.
You have leveled up.
You have leveled up.
『You have obtained the achievement: “Removed the Core of the Chromatic Dragon.”』
『You have obtained the achievement: “Freedom to the Dragons!”』
『You have obtained the achievement: “The Final Step.”』
『You have obtained the achievement: “Message from Shimo.”』
‘Only three levels up? But considering there is no PK message or chaotic system…’
Leeha’s attack did not affect Lark.
In other words, it meant that Lark had died before Leeha’s ＜White Reaper＞ could fully unfold.
‘Damn, still, I definitely… definitely saw the skill, Lark.’
Although Lark had already been prepared for it, even for Leeha, it was a bit disappointing.
A user who had been criticized by everyone but ultimately fulfilled their duty.
Someone who had been active only in the shadows and thus had not been recognized until now.
Leeha tried to understand the current situation through the various system messages and notifications ringing in his head, but he didn’t have the time to check them.
“Oppa!”
Ram Hwajung ran frantically and hugged Leeha.
It was such a powerful tackle that some of his HP was slightly consumed, but Leeha didn’t even feel the pain.
While Ram Hwajung was hugging Leeha’s waist and rubbing her head against him, Ram Hwayeon, who had been signaling everyone from atop the mana supply tower, slowly approached Leeha.
“Ha Leeha…”
Barely managing to call out Leeha’s name, she covered her mouth with both hands.
In a snow-filled place like this, she couldn’t just hug him.
Given their situation of not being able to publicly date, behaving this way was reasonable and appropriate.
“Hwayeon…”
But can emotions be so easily controlled?
“Ha Leehaaaa!”
“Hwayeon!”
Ram Hwayeon ran and embraced Leeha. Leeha hugged her tightly too.
A fortunate aspect amidst their misfortune was that the majority of users’ gazes weren’t directed toward them.
Even when Ha Leeha hugged Ram Hwayeon, while Ram Hwajung dangled from his waist, most of the users’ attention was on Tiamat.
There were only a few people watching them.
Among them was Lee Jiwon, who stood at the forefront of the mana supplier.
“What kind of skill is this… No, is this even a skill?”
Rank 2, having gone through battles on land and in the air, yet even he couldn’t comprehend this form.
Ha Leeha, embracing Ram Hwayeon, gave a slight smile to Lee Jiwon.
“It’s a conditional split skill. Without your guidance, Lee Jiwon, and without you leading these people, I could never have used it.”
“Mana consumption per split?”
“Yes.”
Listening to Ha Leeha’s response, Lee Jiwon checked his own mana. Thanks to MP recovery, only about 33 mana had been restored.
‘With all my mana, Ram Hwajung’s mana, and all of their mana…’
How many users were lined up behind?
Compared to Lee Jiwon and Ram Hwajung’s levels, it didn’t amount to much, but the jobs of the users at the rear of the frontlines were generally mages or healers.
‘Even if they’re low-level, they would have been around level 160 to 170, and assuming they aren’t useless with empty mana pools, if their mana tanks were filled to 70%…’
Lee Jiwon quickly calculated.
He couldn’t know the exact number, but he was certain it was over 5,000.
Conservatively estimating, if there were 5,000 mana-using jobs at level 170?
Adding in himself and Ram Hwajung, who possessed much more mana compared to them?
How thick could one rune beam be? There were enough beams to ‘slice through’ the sky.
Minimum estimated mana consumption: about 40,000,000.
If the users behind had a bit more mana, or if their levels were higher than Lee Jiwon’s calculations, the total mana could surpass 60 million.
Possibly, the total mana among the users could even reach 100 million.
“Kuk… Kukukuk. Uhihihit.”
Meaning they spent such a crazy amount of mana to achieve this.
Despite the absurdity, they actually accomplished it.
“I acknowledge it. I totally acknowledge it. My gloom has completely vanished, truly. There was always a way.”
Lee Jiwon’s face brightened.
Seeing Ha Leeha’s phenomenal feats and strength, alongside his approach to Middle Earth, made the solutions to his issues become apparent.
“Pardon?”
“I’ll repay you with achievements next time. Thank you, hyung~”
“W-wait, Lee Jiwon!”
Swoosh―!
He teleported away immediately.
Ram Hwayeon, who had also regained her composure, took a step away from Ha Leeha.
It wasn’t the right moment to move during such an ambiguous conversation with Lee Jiwon.
And when it all ended, Tiamat’s colossal body, left only with a head and tail, started turning into ash.
* * *
“The color’s ash… It’s dead.”
“It’s falling! Tiamat’s falling!”
Tiamat was dead. Her mana no longer existed.
Without the mana to keep her massive body afloat, it was natural for her to fall to the ground.
When the head and tail of the ashen Tiamat began plummeting rapidly, a fanfare resounded in the minds of all users connected to Middle Earth.
The Queen of the Chromatic Dragons, Tiamat, has been sealed in the Abyss.
She will never forget those who sealed her and those who scarred her body and mind.
『Sealer: Lark, Dragon Slayer, lv. 277, Minis Affiliation』
Cumulative Damage Ranking:
1st. Ha Leeha
Second Place: Bailephus
Third Place: Alexander
No further rankings
You have acquired the Achievement “Tiamat’s Curse”.
You have acquired the Achievement “Kuzgunak’sh’s Last Wish.”
“What—.”
As Leeha read the newly displayed achievements under the public announcement, his eyes widened.
Tiamat’s Curse? Accumulated damage? Why were these popping up for him?
‘And what’s with Kuzgunak’sh’s Last Wish— Gah!’
Leeha wanted to check the achievements further, but the surrounding users were causing a commotion, making it impossible for him to do so.
“Whoa!? It was really Lark who sealed it!”
“I thought there was something up there earlier! But how did he get that far?”
“He’s truly the Rainbow Knight! Did you see that aurora just now!?”
“Damn, that’s a skill? And his job title is Dragon Slayer?”
“But where did Lark go?”
The Sealer of Tiamat, Lark. Job: Dragon Slayer. The commotion was created by a significant number of people who couldn’t figure out Lark’s whereabouts and those who didn’t understand his job title.
No matter how much they talked among themselves, they couldn’t resolve their questions.
However, the important point was just one thing. Although it was described as sealing, Tiamat would no longer cause havoc.
Amid the cheers, a clear question arose.
“Ha Leeha? What happened to Ha Leeha!?”
“Why is Ha Leeha ranked first?”
“We didn’t see him except for that one time at the beginning. Wasn’t Alexander the one who went wild the most?”
“No, that’s also weird! Alexander didn’t even land a proper blow— and why is Bailephus separately ranked in second place with Alexander? Aren’t they practically the same entity?”
“What does ‘No further rankings’ mean? Those dragons that fought Tiamat— are they saying all those dragons and users didn’t make it to the rankings?”
Despite the frantic questions from the people, Leeha couldn’t provide any answers.
After all, he didn’t even remember inflicting damage on Tiamat.
Without giving Leeha a moment to express his ignorance, users kept on discussing and speculating, making it impossible to find a resolution.
So, what was left to do?
“Damn! What does it matter! Let’s take down some monsters!”
“Let’s go, let’s go!”
“Push through───!”
The colossal body of the falling Tiamat was slowly evaporating and vanishing.
Since it no longer posed a threat of crushing the users beneath it as it hit the ground, there was no fear left among the users.
Most importantly, what about the weakened chromatic dragons after Tiamat was sealed?
『Our Queen…….』
『What about the Elder? I can’t feel the mana of Elder Onyx either.』
『What’s happening?』
No matter how high the basic AI was set, it couldn’t grasp ‘what it didn’t know’.
It was only natural for the chromatic dragons to fall into panic.
『It is righteous to annihilate evil!』
『This is no mere revenge for the Lord— this is the pure defense of good!』
With the absence of great beings like Bahamut and Bailephus, the morale of the metal dragons, which had barely held on, began to soar.
Rather than facing the enemy with anger, the situation of the metal dragons became favorable enough for them to calmly and dutifully fulfill their roles.
If the metal dragons dominated the sky like that, chimera and manticores on the ground wouldn’t stand a chance.
Some manticores tried to pierce the metal dragons and turn them into chimera, but they couldn’t keep up with the-nimble movements of the metal dragons.
One by one, the manticores either had their wings torn by the dragons’ claws or were ripped apart by their jaws.
The chimerae weren’t in a better situation either.
“Arzenmacht.”
『Yes. Hmmm—!』
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At some point, even Ram Hwajung, who started using “Partner: Arjenmatt” to join the front lines, began to dominate the battlefield.
She had quickly moved to the battlefield, hoping that her unni and the oppa she liked would spend a good time together. However, she did not know that the atmosphere had been significantly ruined because of Lee Jiwon.
Of course, at this moment, she did not care about that.
What did she have to do?
The genius of Middle Earth, Ram Hwajung, clearly understood.
There was no need to face the already defeated and disheartened Chromatic Dragons.
What she had to do was further encourage the users, who had regained their morale as Tiamat’s figure completely vanished.
『Wooooooo―!』
“〈Blizzard〉.”
Rather than killing the chimera directly, she decided to utilize a wide-range freezing debuff. The combination of Arjenmatt’s frosty breath and Ram Hwajung’s blizzard immobilized hundreds of chimeras.
Most users wouldn’t just sit back and watch that.
“Push them backkkkkkkkkk!”
“However this ends! Damn, it means we won!”
“Experience points! All those experience points are mine!”
The Demon King’s army’s frontline, which had advanced significantly, collapsed rapidly.
If the users had been slightly better coordinated, they could have performed a swift maneuver with the mobile wings to encircle the central army, achieving a so-called “wrap-around attack”!
However, the present users’ thoughts didn’t extend that far.
In effect, it was not an exaggeration to say that all the battles had ended.
“It would have been nice if Kay was here!”
“Ki-kik, well, we’ll level up quickly and catch up with the guild master while he’s gone.”
“Haha! That’s a good idea, Biyemi. Let’s go!”
The main members of the Byulcho Guild excitedly began to attack the chimeras, penetrating through them faster than any other guild.
“Do you think Kijung is doing well?”
“The fact that he hasn’t died until now kind of answers that. Plus, Tiamat is dead…”
The fact that Kijung wasn’t present had been a reality for over thirty minutes.
The important members of the Byulcho Guild, like Tale, Biyemi, Bobae, and Hyein, all smiled contentedly.
Thirty minutes ago, their guild master had disappeared, but his name was still visible in their friend list.
“Yeah, no matter how formidable Ghibrid is, he can’t keep fighting endlessly.”
“Nah. And Kay’s not the only one there.”
Kijung had been facing Ghibrid. Confronting that early-appearing Demon King’s Fragment.
His struggles were, of course, not something he could handle alone.
* * *
『The Dinosaurization is ending! When are you going to fire again!』
“C’mon, don’t worry! 3, 2, let’s make chimera soup!”
───────────────!
When Luger pulled the trigger, a cloud of dust rose all around.
The firepower was so overwhelming that both the barrel of the Cobalt Blue Python and Luger’s body trembled.
The gunfire was loud enough to be heard even at the front lines, where the battle was most intense.
Though Leeha could hear it from quite a distance, he couldn’t afford to pay attention to it for one reason.
At that moment, Leeha and Prea were contending with another Demon King’s Fragment.
“Amazing…”
As Kijung’s Dinosaurization skill ended, he once again realized the power of Luger’s cannon.
Surely, he had blocked some of those attacks. It was he who had delivered the divine retribution, the “Judgment of Ahlo”.
But what about now?
Drip… Drip…
Although it was a weakened Ghibrid, the Luger’s cannonballs tore its body apart with an unbelievable force.
Even Kijung could clearly see where the Luger’s bullets had penetrated. The holes in Ghibrid’s body were so large and distinct that he could see the background behind it clearly.
“How can this be… I heard they got stronger after the East Expedition of the New Continent. Not just Hyung Leeha, but everyone supposedly grew immensely― but to this extent?”
In the past, even the cannonballs of the Luger, as well as the surrounding flames, were absorbed by Ghibrid. Bobae’s arrows had no effect either. Only those imbued with fire managed to barely tear its bandages, but they still failed to properly damage Ghibrid.
“Except for the 〈Mace of Ahlo〉, no skill or item could stand against Ghibrid!”
Even Lee Jiwon only faced Bluebeard. Kijung was the only one who dealt with Ghibrid when trying to prevent the first summoning of Tiamat. The reason Kijung risked his life was because no other skill could damage them.
But the current attack from the Luger was different. His attack clearly pierced Ghibrid’s body, a dreadful mixture of demonic flesh, with 『Pierce』. Ghibrid, who barely stood up, bowed its head to look at the hole in its chest.
The appearance of wearing a “user’s skin” had long vanished. Ghibrid, now a grotesque figure formed of black sludge with eyes scattered all over, spoke.
“… Silk Snake.”
“Silk Snake?”
Kijung reacted to Ghibrid’s sudden remark. However, he couldn’t listen for long. The hole in Ghibrid’s chest wasn’t maintained. The wound was slowly healing, albeit gradually. This frustrating point was also why they were still alive until now.
Kijung quickly ran towards the Luger. While Ghibrid was healing, it couldn’t move swiftly.
“You troublesome creature. You remind me of the one combined with a Manticore.”
“Not just reminded, that was me― Ugh! Damn!”
“Combined? Luger― Ah, Luger-mon! Hmph, can’t even remember? Or rather, with that much, doesn’t it actually mean you do remember?”
The Luger, who was about to shout at Ghibrid, shut his mouth. Ghibrid logically shouldn’t recognize the ‘past and present Luger’ due to the system, yet it seemed to recall enough to connect both, indicating that the attack was of the same nature but had merely grown in destructive power.
“Shut up.”
When Kijung pointed it out and teased him, the Luger pouted heavily.
“Well, it’s not the time to play. Hurry up and fire again! Didn’t you shoot before becoming Luger-mon?”
“You’re as foolish as Ha Leeha! If I had this back then, wouldn’t I have used it?”
Gruffly, the Luger proudly took out another item from his bag and inserted it into the muzzle again. The intentional display made Kijung chuckle, though it was indeed a strangely designed cannonball.
The streamlined projectile with pointed front and rear resembled a dagger in motif, a testament to the Luger’s second bullet requested from Bottleneck, made purely for 『Pierce』.
“What are you staring at! Another shot will take at least three more minutes, block it somehow! The wound is nearly healed already!”
Kijung, still fixated, was shaken by the Luger’s shout. Only Kijung and the Luger knew the power of the cannonball when fired using the skill 〈Self-propelled Artillery〉.
“Easy for you to say! How am I supposed to block it with no skills left! I’d rather― huh!?”
“Huh?”
“T-Tiamat― what the hell is that?”
When Kijung pointed to the sky, the Luger’s gaze also lifted. At that precise moment, the white beam that had split the sky had already disappeared.
Luger could only see the snowflakes fluttering around Tiamat.
And suddenly, Tiamat’s head and tail were severed and fell.
“A white laser― Is it Leeha-hyung?”
Kijung didn’t witness the final activation of the 〈White Reaper〉, but he could at least realize that the something white occupying part of the sky belonged to someone he knew.
As soon as Luger heard Leeha’s name, his expression transformed rapidly.
“That… that crazy guy did something crazy again.”
Kijung and Luger, both hunting dogs who never faltered due to their instincts, accurately pinpointed the cause of the event.
“That’s right. It’s the same technique he showed us on the way to Laputa… the one that killed Kaztor.”
“Ha, just as expected.”
Despite the sudden voice, Luger didn’t turn his head. Instead, it was Kijung who was surprised.
* * *
“Huh? Ki-Kidd! That…”
Thud, thud, thud.
Kidd was approaching with strange items attached to his arms and legs.
Luger knew that Kidd would come to him. He would not be reassured just standing against Ghibrid with Kijung alone.
Even though the 〈Mace of Ahlo〉 had significantly weakened Ghibrid, it was clear Luger could not finish it off with his own skills.
However, he couldn’t ask just anyone for help.
The person Luger considered, who would take on Ghibrid with Master Kay while he prepared his skills, was Kidd.
No need for words, since he was one of the Three Musketeers who could come hearing the sound of gunfire.
“Don’t worry about it. As Leeha has perfectly eliminated Tiamat… No, Onyx, we can now focus on Ghibrid’s annihilation.”
“Ha, fine. If you, Kidd, have also done ‘that’, then this time― hmm!?”
“Luger!”
“Damn, I am not ready yet!”
Kidd ran out shouting.
Even if Luger tried to back him up immediately, there wasn’t enough mana yet to fire the 〈Magnetic Field Cannon〉.
Although Kidd’s instantaneous speed was second to none, he could not catch up with Ghibrid, who was erupting forward by compressing and releasing tremendous strength.
“Huh, gi-Ghibrid is―.”
『I’ll remember this. Holy Knight. And― Silken Serpent.』
Catching Ghibrid?
That was only if Ghibrid was willing to fight.
Even after 〈Dinosaurization〉 ended, it was impossible for Kijung to even see the scene of Ghibrid starting to flee and Kidd chasing after it.
Ghibrid’s voice in the air was distorted.
With the sudden event, Kijung couldn’t gather his thoughts. So, what was the outcome of the current situation?
“He-haha. What? It… it ran away?”
“… Hmph, there’s nothing to rejoice about. This was inevitable.”
“Inevitable? Ghibrid! Luger! We made Ghibrid retreat, you and I, together! Wahaha! If we don’t celebrate this, what would we celebrate!”
Victory!
They won against Demon King’s Fragment!
What did it mean that just the two of them accomplished this?
Seeing Luger dispel his skill, Kijung grabbed his arm and wanted to dance. However, Kidd, who gave up chasing Ghibrid and returned, was on the same page as Luger.
“Luger is right. If I was here, we should have definitely killed Ghibrid.”
“Ki-Kidd?”
“You must not believe that the skills you possess will always work.”
“Say what you must. Without that Holy Power skill, my attacks would not easily affect it.”
“Oh, are you admitting your own weakness?”
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“It… it was just a hypothesis, a hypothesis! It could have happened, maybe!”
Kidd sarcastically retorted as Luger bristled and answered him.
Pushing down his hat with a wry smile, Luger shot him a glare before opening his mouth again.
“If we don’t weaken it with that skill, any attack would be meaningless. That blasted Ghibrid will come up with a countermeasure against your skill. No, worst-case scenario, it might not even try to fight you at all.”
“Ah…”
Only two users, aside from Kijung, had witnessed the power of the “Mace of Ahlo”.
Lee Jiwon and Luger.
Both had seen the massive skill striking down upon Ghibrid.
Both were worried about the same thing.
‘Will the skill work next time?’
“Still! It worked this time! Just like it worked when I went with Lee Jiwon last time―.”
“That was back when the creature didn’t know about your skill. And at that time, it was blinded by my aggression. You managed to ambush Ghibrid, who was furious after I slaughtered the Manticore, and that’s why you succeeded.”
Ghibrid’s speed, as it charged at Luger, was faster than Luger had anticipated.
Instead of allowing him to use the time bomb for self-destruction, it was Kijung, who had completed his transformation into a dinosaur, that blocked it in front of Luger. Kijung had successfully ambushed Ghibrid using the “Mace of Ahlo” skill immediately.
Luger, having experienced that moment, understood.
‘It won’t work again…’
They should have captured it this time.
Expecting the same skill to work again on the Demon King’s Fragment would be underestimating Middle Earth.
“Hmph, if only you had arrived a bit earlier! Also, what on earth is that monstrosity?”
“Earlier? I was on my way back after killing the Chimera fused from Pyro and Igor. Unlike some, I don’t engage in foolish actions that let the target escape.”
“What? Foolish? You idiot! Do you know how many Manticores I’ve killed, you fool!?”
Luger and Kidd were bickering with each other.
Kijung shared their analysis of Ghibrid to some extent, but he could no longer sustain that thought.
“Tiamat is… crumbling.”
An alarm related to Tiamat had also appeared for them, showing Tiamat falling down in a gray ash from the sky.
Kidd and Luger, who had been quarreling, looked up at the sky.
“Tiamat’s accumulated damage leader…?”
Lifting his hat’s brim slightly, Kidd bit his lip hard.
“What on earth did that guy…?”
Compared to Luger, who stood with his mouth agape, Kidd’s reaction was far more gentlemanly. He quickly closed his mouth, startled by his own response, and began to babble incoherently.
“There should be a penalty for not using such a broken skill! No, what… how did… damn it!”
He ended with a roar.
Thanks to each individual’s exceptional achievements, including the Three Musketeers, the Rankers, and the Outsider-class users, the front line was steadily being cleared up.
The chromatic dragons lost Tiamat.
The chimera nest Ghibrid retreated.
Driving out troops that had completely lost their will to fight was as easy as pie.
To the users who had barely held out until then, it felt like a ‘bonus experience point event,’ marking a rewarding moment for lower-level users who participated in the war.
In this rapidly moving front line, metal dragons suddenly fell to the ground.
“Huh? What’s wrong with the dragons?”
“What, what’s happening? Why are they all crashing?”
“Damn, we need their breath! It makes driving back the chimeras easier!”
Leeha was also watching places pointed out by lamenting users.
At the same time, a loud ringing filled Leeha’s head.
―Ha Leehaaa!
―Blaugrunn? What’s going on?
―The Lord… the Lord…
Blaugrunn was wailing.
Even though he hadn’t heard any details yet, Leeha felt a sweat trickle down his back.
“Why! Why Bahamut?! You said Raphaela could save him! You told us the situation wasn’t critical right after retreating to the lair! Weren’t Bahamut, Bailephus, and Alexander all going to be fine?”
That’s what allowed him to feel at ease.
Survival of Bahamut and the death of Tiamat were the absolute conditions to ensure Lark’s plan didn’t go up in smoke.
So, what had happened to Bahamut?
“Yes! That’s right—he was fine then… but… Khhh…”
“Don’t cry! If he was fine then, what happened next? Just tell me the result! What happened?”
Even though Leeha urged him frantically, emotions weren’t easily controlled. That was true even for dragons. At least, they certainly were more cool-headed and quick compared to humans, so Leeha had to wait for about 30 seconds until Blaugrunn could regain his full senses.
30 seconds that felt as if the sound of his own heartbeat might echo in his ears passed, and Blaugrunn finally spoke.
“The Lord… has passed away.”
“What?”
“The Lord Bahamut has returned to peace… he has gone back.”
Then, he announced Bahamut, the Lord of Platinum Dragons and Leader of the Metal Dragons, had died.
* * *
Leeha stood there in a daze for a while.
Even when Ram Hwayeon tapped his shoulder, he couldn’t register her presence.
Returned to peace?
Didn’t that mean ‘death’ in dragon expressions?
Had he misunderstood something? But who died? Bahamut?
After some time of mental processing, he managed to respond to Blaugrunn.
– No way! Blaugrunn! This is no time for jokes!
– This is not a joke! Do you think I would joke about something like this?!
– Then how… why? Because of Tiamat’s breath? So—
– No. It’s not that. The Lord… died in place of Zelreja and Kurpke. He sacrificed himself to save them.
‘Zelreja… Kurpke…’
Leeha recalled the two dragons’ names. What did it mean to have saved them?
Where were they?
“No way, then—in that place—”
“Yes. A vampire woman appeared with the “Arcane Sniper”…
“Chiyou!”
The third card he hadn’t been concerned with until now sank Leeha’s heart.
“Suddenly? Why Chiyou?”
“Chiyou, eventually… Ah, ah! It was that side! Thank goodness it wasn’t visible—but I thought she was doing something else somewhere else…”
“Ha Leeha?”
“I thought wrong! Damn, damn! She targeted that side—maybe from the beginning! Yes, from the beginning she targeted it! There was no way Bluebeard would fall that easily! There was no way Ghibrid would reveal itself so easily either!”
“Ha Leeha! Get a hold of yourself, Ha Leeha!”
Ram Hwayeon grabbed and shook Leeha’s shoulders, slapping his cheek lightly.
The sharp sound echoed, and a warm sensation on his cheek brought Leeha back to his senses.
“Speak calmly! What happened?”
“Hwayeon….”
Leeha looked into Ram Hwayeon’s eyes.
The sanity he barely regained finally allowed him to comprehend the entire situation clearly.
Bluebeard was here.
Ghibrid was here.
Where would everyone’s attention be diverted? The Demon King’s Fragments that had no reason to walk around and draw attention to themselves, even if they were at the very rear of the front line, inevitably did just that!
—Hyung! F-f-from the, the, the papacy—they contacted us—right now, from the papacy—
—Woke up, didn’t you? … Pyrot-Cocri.
It was to divert attention away from Peklo City.
‘From the start, this was Chiyou’s plan. No, to be precise—it was Bluebeard’s plan. Le put himself at the forefront to facilitate Chiyou’s operation.’
With Arcane Sniper present, the dragon guarding the front of Peklo City wouldn’t pose any hindrance.
However, at that moment Leeha had a question.
“Why…?”
“Yes?”
“It’s clear why Le wanted Chiyou. But why did Chiyou strike a deal with Le? What did she gain?”
Was it simply to flaunt the power of Arcane Bullet? No way.
There was a limited number of Arcane Bullet. It wasn’t something to be used recklessly. It didn’t make sense to use it just to awaken Pyrot-Cocri.
That was undoubtedly a benefit to the Demon King’s Fragment and the Demon King’s army. But Chiyou?
‘A woman who calls herself a third force… would she really?’
What could she possibly gain?
Leeha didn’t know, but he was sure about one thing. Chiyou never moved without gain.
Thus, Chiyou had struck a deal with Bluebeard.
On the day Prea’s dark spirit was discovered by Tiamat.
At the very moment Bluebeard told Faust, ‘I’ll be gone for a while’, Chiyou had already contacted Le.
To obtain what she wanted.
* * *
“Hehehe… I didn’t expect you to contact me this soon.”
“To seize the best timing for both of us, we need to be aware and cooperate, don’t you think?”
“That’s right. Well said. I couldn’t refuse the offer to open Peklo City and fully resurrect Pyrot-Cocri.”
Le lifted the teacup placed in front of him.
Having completely removed his hat and cane, he showed no signs of resistance.
Chiyou didn’t think Le would attack her either.
“Oh my, our Count. It seems you have no doubts about me opening Peklo City.”
“Hmm? Of course not, click click… A fox like you wouldn’t contact me without confidence. Besides—there’s a friend right behind you, so what could you possibly worry about? So, how many bullets did you fire?”
“Oh hoho! Do you think I’d tell you that?”
She had Kyle hidden deep within the darkness behind her, and Le was well aware of that fact.
She bantered while taking a sip of her tea.
How many bullets were fired? To the Arcane Sniper, that was one of the most crucial pieces of information.
Le grinned, showing his teeth before asking her.
“Fine. What do you want?”
Upon hearing Le’s words, Chiyou’s expression grew serious.
At a time when information was paramount, recklessly divulging any could lead to being outmatched by an AI like the Demon King’s Fragment.
However, to obtain that very ‘information,’ she needed to do something crucial.
“Lend me Pyrot-Cocri’s power.”
“Power? You want to borrow power? Not mine, but Pyrot-Cocri’s? That’s not within my decision—”
“No. It’s possible if it’s you, Le.”
The mention of “you” made Le’s eyebrows twitch momentarily. Seeing this, Chiyou quickly corrected her words with a bright smile.
“No, no, I mean, with our Count’s power, it’s possible. Hehe, isn’t that right?”
TL’s Corner:
Chiyou again, the previous generation three musketeers are appearing useless now.
-_-
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“Huh, you’ve improved a lot. A lot indeed, Chiyou.”
“Improved a lot? Do you still think so…? Haha.”
Chiyou openly provoked. Bluebeard, who had been frowning, ended up laughing instead.
“Haha! That’s right. It’s not that you’ve improved a lot; you were already like this from the beginning. I just didn’t notice it. Isn’t that right?”
No matter how angry he was, he never showed it.
He was the kind of person who would swallow his pride and shake hands with his enemy if there was something he absolutely needed to obtain.
“I should be grateful to the count for pretending not to notice. Haha. So… is it possible?”
Only after hearing Le’s response did Chiyou stop provoking.
As much as Le needed Chiyou, Chiyou also needed Le.
Pyrot-Cocri was a newly awakened Demon King’s Fragment. It was reasonable to assume that an earlier awakened Demon King’s Fragment would have more information and power.
So what about Le’s strategy?
Le was almost the number one target Chiyou was most cautious of, so it was unlikely that such a smart AI wouldn’t realize.
In other words, claiming that Le couldn’t do anything about Pyrot-Cocri’s power was a ridiculous excuse.
In reality, after a brief contemplation, Le nodded.
“Alright. Convincing Pyrot-Cocri is simple. So, what do you want to do with that power?”
“I want you to create a fully independent undead that is completely separate from Pyrot-Cocri, you, and all other Demon King’s Fragments including Ghibrid.”
As soon as Chiyou finished speaking, Le laughed.
His mouth stretched wide, almost reaching his ears. The bizarre appearance made his lower face look like one giant mouth.
No matter how human he appeared, a Demon King’s Fragment was never truly a human.
“Huh. So it’s him.”
Chiyou was startled by Bluebeard’s words but didn’t show it. Le glanced at Chiyou’s face and nodded.
“Alright. I accept.”
“Of course, you know it’s only possible when Tiamat goes on a rampage, right?”
“Yes, yes. Of course. Both Ghibrid and I have to intervene. We need to deceive that old Bahamut.”
Listening to Le, Chiyou stood up. She extended her hand toward Bluebeard.
“Will this be our agreement?”
“As long as we know that breaking the promise benefits no one, that constitutes an agreement.”
Le stared at Chiyou’s extended hand for a moment.
He carefully shook her hand. Chiyou was delighted with Le’s final test.
If he didn’t attack even in such a defenseless state, then their plan would surely proceed.
Even after that day and when the war had officially begun, Chiyou waited for the battlefield to ripen sufficiently until the absolute beings would injure each other, preparing for any unexpected variables.
At the end of the long wait, the moment she moved was when Bahamut blocked Tiamat’s breath.
Receiving real-time information from the battlefield through Sasuke, shinobigumi, and Yamato, Chiyou finally stood up.
“Let’s go. We have debts to settle too.”
“Ha, I thought I’d go mad from waiting.”
“Do you need me to face the dragons, too?”
At her words, Igor and Pyro stood up.
Brown, Elizabeth, and Kyle, who were with them, also began to move.
“Oh my, isn’t that obvious? Did you think I would kill the dragon guarding there with Kyle’s bullet?”
“What? You’re not going to shoot?”
“Pyro, you’re even dumber than I thought.”
“Ugh—.”
“Haha, it’s understandable! Only those with nuclear weapons would come up with such an idea, Pyro.”
Even Igor understood Chiyou’s intention and mocked Pyro, which was a surprise.
“Nuclear weapons? What’s that now—.”
“You—dumb—fool. Nukes are scary not because they cause great harm when used.”
“Then?”
Pyro asked calmly, without showing any anger at Igor’s words.
When Igor smirked, Chiyou nodded, mouthing “Correct.”
“The key point is that possessing it allows for any negotiation. Of course, the more you have, the stronger it becomes. Haha! I don’t know how many shots of Arcane Bullet you have, but shooting them at an Ancient Dragon is sheer madness!”
“Well, even if Kyle goes with us, that’s only for the worst-case scenario. Now that the lecture is over, shall we go? It’s not urgent, but we need to move quickly.”
All members, including Chiyou, teleported simultaneously.
It was possible because they had been hiding in the west, north of the New Continent, even before the war broke out.
* * *
The first to move was Zelreja.
“Mm? Zele—.”
“Kurpke, sir! 80 meters ahead, debuff!”
“〈Area Slow〉.”
The Ancient Copper Dragon, Kurpke, promptly executed Zelreja’s command without any question or resistance.
As the area-based slow skill was realized at the point Kurpke indicated, Zelreja swung their sword.
It was a moment when the faint purple light flickered in a place where there was nothing but a few snow-covered rocks.
“Kiieeeee─!”
The collision of metal against metal made an unpleasant screeching sound.
The shockwave was so strong that the snow on the ground was whipped up into the air, yet the one who blocked Zelreja’s sword was laughing.
“Hahahaha! What is this!? It’s a Steel Dragon from back then!?”
“Lowlife, I’ll tear you apart!”
Although Igor’s mouth was laughing, his eyes were tense.
Chiyou was also tense, albeit for slightly different reasons.
“Oh my… Reacting even before teleportation is done? Are dragons that agile?”
They had just arrived after executing the teleport.
Despite intentionally maintaining some distance, why was the dragon already swinging its sword first?
Had it not been Igor, even Chiyou would not have been able to withstand such an attack.
“Hahaha, still, I doubt you can tear me apart with just this!”
“Don’t be ridiculous. We haven’t even started.”
Zelreja pressed her sword, made from her tail, against Igor’s serrated blade. The sound of breaking and shattering came as the serrations began to snap off.
Igor’s expression worsened.
The main issue was that it was not nighttime.
Despite being an Adult-class Steel Dragon, its physical combat capabilities were on par with an Ancient Dragon!
From the perspective of ‘Vampire’ Igor, facing such a powerful opponent during the day, when his stats were weakened, was not favorable.
Moreover, this area was already under the effects of the Copper Dragon’s skill.
With his lowered stats and an additional debuff, Igor, who stood 283cm tall, was being pushed back by Zelreja, who was around 170cm.
Igor glanced at Chiyou.
Understanding that further contest of strength was pointless, he chose his only option.
“Chiyou, finish it quickly. 〈Blood Consume〉.”
Blood vessels burst from various points on Igor’s forearms.
His arms, veins bulging and turning blue, looked abnormal, as if his capillaries had all ruptured.
Even Pyro had never seen Igor use such a skill before.
It was the kind of berserker skill usually reserved for dire situations, where they would rather perish together.
The skill, which momentarily increased his stats explosively while consuming his HP, was one Igor only used when he was at a low level or had guild members from Tzar to transfer HP to him.
“Hahahahaha! But getting a Steel Dragon’s tail is worth this much, isn’t it!?”
Wham!
Igor leaped backward in an instant.
Zelreja pursued without hesitation, but Igor’s sword had already been swung.
Zelreja leaped to the exact spot where it followed.
“You insolent fool.”
Of course, it wasn’t like Zelreja couldn’t react.
Moreover, it was still an area marked by the Copper Dragon’s slow, making Zelreja’s retaliatory sword strike even faster.
“〈Bloody Jet〉!”
“True strength doesn’t come from such trickery!”
*Whizz.*
The sound of wind was heard.
No user had clearly seen Zelreja’s movements.
At the time Pyro was casting a skill to aid Igor, it all happened in less than a second.
“If it weren’t for the slow, this wouldn’t have happened.”
Igor frowned. Only the person affected knew this truth.
────────────!!!!
A sound was followed by a gust of wind.
The wind snapped Igor’s saw-blade sword in half.
For close-range combatants, maintaining equipment durability was essential. Igor had always kept his items in top condition, yet a single strike from the Steel Dragon had led to this outcome.
“Igor! 〈Flame Lance〉!”
Pyro quickly fired a skill in shock.
However, Zelreja effortlessly nullified all of Pyro’s fire lances with a kick.
It was a move that illustrated that she felt no need to use her sword against such a simple skill with a short casting time.
“Oh my…….”
Chiyou genuinely admired it.
Though she no longer felt tense, her expression had worsened a bit.
“Elizabeth? Brown?”
So it was finally time to use this card?
Just as Igor was being pushed to the point where he could barely breathe, three gunshots rang out.
Igor fell on his butt and hastily got up. He realized that Zelreja’s attacks had finally stopped as he caught his breath.
It was only natural since Zelreja had already returned to near Kurpke.
“Kurpke!”
Two bullets were slowly falling in front of Kurpke.
As if covered in sticky glue, the bullets were crushed as they hit the ground.
“They’re stronger than expected, but it doesn’t matter. More importantly, Zelreja…….”
The Ancient Copper Dragon put a gentle hand on Zelreja’s shoulder with an amiable smile.
“You should worry about yourself first.”
“I sincerely apologize. I thought I dodged it, yet—it landed there.”
It was Zelreja who ended up getting hurt.
Seeing the blood gush from her shoulder, curphke cast a healing spell.
Igor, Pyro, and Chiyou were all shocked. They hadn’t accurately gauged the trio’s abilities, so it was inevitable.
“…… You guys―.”
“Did you really hit it? Despite everything?”
“Who…… shot that? Was it an Arcane Bullet?”
Out of the three shots, one managed to hit the dragon.
That too, the Steel Dragon, whose movements even Igor couldn’t handle?
Elizabeth and Brown’s gun barrels were pointing to the same location. The direction of the barrel belonging to Kyle was different.
“No. It wasn’t an Arcane Bullet. And I didn’t kill on purpose as I thought it shouldn’t be killed just yet…….”
Kyle, holding a much longer gun barrel than his parents, gave a faint smile.
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Igor and Pyro felt both tension and fear towards Arcane Sniper, who had suddenly displayed his skills.
Chiyou smiled, looking at such Kyle.
‘Much better than expected… What a good card.’
Kyle turned his muzzle towards Chiyou.
The muzzles of the three fixated on Kurpke and Zelreja.
Igor also regained his composure and stood beside the shooters, with Pyro’s body gradually igniting.
Although they were Ancient Dragons and close to Ancient level dragons, kuffke and Zelreja couldn’t make any rash moves.
“Well… I wouldn’t stop you if you insist on guarding this place even in death—but you just witnessed the skills of our kids. What will you do?”
“Step aside? Don’t make me laugh. Even if I die, I will tear apart at least three of those bastards over there.”
Zelreja growled.
Meanwhile, kuffke was casting various shields and buffs on Zelreja’s body.
“It’s been a long time since I was active, and my body is frail… but at least asking Zelreja to handle my part is something I can do. Can you manage, Zelreja?”
“I don’t like your weak demeanor, kuffke! Hmph, don’t worry. With these buffs, I can surely smash up to five of them.”
Thanks to Kurpke, Zelreja’s wounds were all already healed.
Though Kurpke’s words were modest, focused on support, Igor, who had faced Zelreja, could feel it.
The reason Zelreja trusted and followed Kurpke was probably because of Kurpke’s unbelievable buff abilities.
‘That’s dangerous. If the Steel Dragon hasn’t moved yet, we need to kill her right now. If she jumps in earnest… at least four of us might die.’
Listening to Igor’s whisper, Pyro tensed up.
Chiyou had already activated “Dance of the Social Circle,” swaying her hips gently.
Two dragons, four vampires, and two humans were locked in a standoff, glaring at each other.
Both sides anticipated a mutually destructive end if either side moved first, so no one dared move recklessly.
“Sigh… it can’t be helped. Dragons?”
At Chiyou’s words, Zelreja flinched.
Igor’s muscles also twitched at the sight of Zelreja almost jumping in, but no one made a move.
“Have you ever heard of ‘Arcane Bullet’?”
Chiyou had only one thing she could do. Was the risk of mutual damage significant?
If she moved, causing Kyle or herself to die, that would be even worse.
In that case, using one of her reserved bullets was the only option.
Zelreja was still growling.
“So you were the Arcane Sniper. I felt that dark energy from earlier before at some point.”
But Kurpke swallowed dryly. The Steel Dragon observed Kurpke’s very tense demeanor.
“—Kurpke? Arcane Sniper?”
“Good to hear there’s at least one person who knows. Well, there’s no doubt about the skills… But if you doubt it, should I prove it by taking down that Steel Dragon there?”
“Shut—”
“Zelreja, stop.”
Kurpke grabbed Zelreja’s shoulder as she was about to leap in.
The usually kind smile of the venerable scholar tightened.
“Why stop her? What’s Arcane Bullet—”
“… Arcane Sniper, I ask you this. If I die, will you spare Zelreja?”
“Kurpke! What are you—”
“Oh my? Ohoho! Of course! No, in fact, it’s fine if both of you return!”
Driving them away without firing a single shot?
That was indeed the best scenario Chiyou had envisioned.
If these beings were purely rational and efficient, they would have left the moment Chiyou granted their passage.
“Zelreja, go back and inform the Lord. It’s problematic for an old man like me to block the path of someone as promising as you.”
“Kurpke! What on earth is Arcane Bullet—that you would say such a thing?”
“The Lord would understand. And convey my apologies for not completing the mission… please.”
“It won’t work! Knowing my temper, how can you say such a thing—?”
The old scholar chuckled and gently patted Zelreja’s back.
Before Zelreja could say anything, Kurpke had already used a skill.
“〈Enforced Teleport〉.”
Zelreja’s figure vanished instantly. Kurpke quickly sealed the surrounding space.
“Huh… You could really return. But you insist on staying?”
“I wouldn’t have the face to meet the Lord. No matter how lacking I might be, I am not so lacking as to lose the pride of a metal dragon.”
Kurpke spoke with composure.
On the contrary, it was Chiyou’s side that was flustered by such an attitude.
Could they have a trick up their sleeve? To think a dragon would react in such a way.
Even though the space-lock had been used, it was only natural to assume it was a trap.
“After taking that hit, do you think the dragon won’t come back?”
“You don’t need to worry. With Zelreja’s mana control, she won’t be able to break through.”
Chiyou shuddered in frustration.
Saving even one Arcane Bullet would have been the best, but must it be used to kill such a lowly dragon?
‘If I’m going to kill one anyway… a better dragon—.’
Shwaa!
At that moment, cracks began to form in the space-lock.
As Brown, Elizabeth, and Kyle raised their guns toward it, a violet light flashed.
Next to Kurpke stood an old man with white hair.
His left sleeve flapped, and his pale face had blood dripping from his mouth.
“L-Lord!”
“K-Kurpke.”
Bahamut barely stood on two legs by leaning on Kurpke’s shoulder. It was clear from just looking that he was not in normal condition.
None of the other users could precisely understand what was happening.
Only one, Chiyou, was struggling hard to control her expression.
A severely injured Bahamut from Tiamat’s breath attack had come here? What could it mean?
She instinctively understood.
* * *
“What is this— How did you get here?”
“It’s nothing, so don’t worry.”
“It’s not nothing! Why, and why here…?”
Kurpke, usually composed and kind, was now filled with anxiety and worry, supporting Bahamut carefully.
Although Kurpke already looked considerably aged, next to Bahamut, he appeared youthful.
Bahamut looked at Kurpke.
Although he didn’t smile or laugh, the warmth in Bahamut’s gaze was palpable even to the users on Chiyou’s side.
“When it’s time for an old man to go, he should be able to choose his place, shouldn’t he?”
“What are you talking about? Please, don’t say such things, not even in jest.”
“Heh, heh heh… Is that so? I believed that you, who had been with me since I was a juvenile, would understand. I think about the times when you, Bailephus, and I played together.”
One could only speculate about Bahamut’s age, but it was enough to assume he was at least an Ancient Wyrm, over 8,000 years old, and of a higher tier than even Ancient Dragons of over 5,000 years. Those who knew about his connection to Onix would generally opine that he might be slightly older than Onix.
The dragons who had been with Bahamut since his juvenile days were none other than the Gold Dragon, Bailephus, and the Copper Dragon, Kurpke.
Kurpke showed a brief, wistful smile at Bahamut’s words but quickly masked his expression.
“Hurry and go back. Your presence here won’t solve anything.”
“I won’t place my burden on you.”
Bahamut kindly but firmly refused Kurpke’s assistance, even brushing off his support.
Standing confidently on two legs, Bahamut’s presence made not only the players but also the NPCs flinch. The only ones who didn’t back down were Chiyou and Kyle.
“So… what are you going to do? As I said before, I think both of you should leave. It’s best to take the final opportunity I’m giving you.”
Chiyou spoke, licking her tongue.
Bahamut glared at Chiyou for a moment before turning his gaze. His eyes were fixed on Kyle.
“Indeed. Are you the Arcane Sniper?”
Kyle didn’t respond. The barrel of his gun quietly aimed at Bahamut.
“Ha ha, I see. Your eyes are very different from the Musketeers I know.”
At the word Musketeer, Chiyou reacted briefly.
“… Ha Leeha?”
“Hm? You know of him?”
“We’re not strangers, hmm.”
“Well, that’s great… then it will be easier.”
Bahamut smiled softly.
Hearing his words, Chiyou also smiled. She knew her guess was correct.
Bahamut had certainly come to die.
‘But why…? Is a dragon’s pride so important? The things you can achieve alive and the end that comes with death are completely different. What does he mean by going easier? Is he hoping Ha Leeha will exact revenge on his behalf out of rage?’
There were multiple scenarios, but Chiyou couldn’t pinpoint Bahamut’s exact intentions.
She understood one thing:
Just as Kurpke tried to save Zelreja, Bahamut had come to save Kurpke.
“Lord, why do you keep saying such things?”
“No, Kurpke… I am only doing what you should have done. You said this was the leader’s responsibility, didn’t you?”
“But that was when you just became a Platinum Dragon! That was so long ago— even Bailephus doesn’t mention it anymore!”
When Kurpke shouted, Chiyou became more suspicious.
Why? For what reason?
Killing the Platinum Dragon Bahamut was undoubtedly a great opportunity, and not a single shot would be wasted.
But what is this about burdens? Duties? Responsibilities?
‘Suspicious. Is he stalling for time with these overly dramatic words?’
Was he trying to buy time from Chiyou, who already dominated the space as a stronger being showing mercy to a weaker one?
Chiyou doubted.
However, Bahamut no longer wasted any time.
“Kurpke.”
Bahamut called Kurpke’s name softly.
“Lord!”
Kurpke couldn’t hide his anxiety.
When he was with Zelreja, Kurpke seemed like a sage who had seen it all, but in the face of the Platinum Dragon’s majesty, he was just another dragon.
Watching Kurpke, Bahamut smiled. Chiyou saw Bahamut’s lips tremble.
“Tell Bailephus I’m sorry. I’m leaving the rest to him.”
“No— You go and tell him yourself! I… I can’t—”
“Go, now. 〈Enforced Teleport〉.”
“No—”
Whoosh.
At that moment, Kurpke was teleported to Bahamut’s lair. Bahamut immediately sealed the space.
Only after ensuring that no other dragons could come to this place did Bahamut turn to face Chiyou’s group with a relieved expression.
“Now, kill me.”
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“… What if we don’t kill you?!”
Chiyou tentatively asked Bahamut.
In an instant, a radiant light burst from Bahamut’s body.
Kyle was ready to pull the trigger at that very moment. However, it was Chiyou who stopped him.
Even though Igor and Pyro were unsure about whether to use their skills or not, Kyle was about to shoot mercilessly.
As the light vanished, the overwhelming platinum dragon still stood proudly in its place.
“I will risk my life to stop you all.”
Though it was evident from the dragon’s numerous wounds, torn scales, and lacerations that he was not in perfect condition. The massive scar running from his chest to his belly indicated the considerable damage caused by Tiamat’s breath.
Chiyou briefly regarded Bahamut with a calculating gaze.
Even though he was not in his prime state, if he risked his life to defend, they would undoubtedly lose one or two people without using Arcane Bullet’s power.
Even an injured tiger still had its fangs intact.
‘That’s why it makes me suspicious. Why wouldn’t it choose to fight? If it believed it could take down one or two of us… wouldn’t it be beneficial to weaken our forces, even a little?’
“If you won’t respond, then I’ll go first.”
Mana particles slowly began to gather in front of Bahamut’s mouth.
As they watched the platinum dragon prepare to release its breath, Igor and Pyro urged Chiyou.
“What are you doing? Let him shoot!”
“My flames can only hold off its breath for barely 2 seconds.”
“Damn it, fine. There’s no choice. Kyle!”
Chiyou had to make a decision. If they were willing to die on the other side, there was no need to reject it.
“Yes.”
“Shoot the ‘Arcane Bullet’ at that dragon.”
Above all, Pyro could not be allowed to waste his flames on the dragon’s breath. His flames needed to be used to melt the ice blocking the entrance to Peklo City.
Calmly, Kyle raised the muzzle of the gun.
And slowly pulled the trigger.
Bahamut stared into Kyle’s eyes as he did so. The platinum dragon’s eyes flinched for a brief moment.
In that instant, light began to seep from Bahamut’s chest.
“Is this what it is?”
Bang─────────!
The gunshot echoed belatedly. With a satisfied expression, Bahamut, whose dragon heart had shattered, gazed at Chiyou and the others.
“You will not succeed.”
“So there was something up your sleeve, wasn’t there? But once Peklo City is opened, and Pyrot-Cocri awakens, it’s over, isn’t it?”
“Haha… It might seem that way for now. For now, it might appear so. But your ultimate fate… will be failure.”
“What do you mean by that?”
Chiyou asked irritably.
The once-smiling face of Bahamut rapidly grew fierce. The light leaking from the shattered dragon heart was becoming increasingly brighter.
To the users watching, it appeared as if white blood was flowing from the gaping hole in Bahamut’s chest.
“Do you think someone who killed the leader of the Metal Dragons… can escape their pursuit!?”
“Leader—pursuit, oh no!?”
Only then did Chiyou seem to grasp what it meant.
Why had Bahamut come instead? What did the tasks, responsibilities of a leader, all imply?
‘Something only the dragon’s boss-tier entity could do—’
It existed!
Chiyou began to fume. There was indeed something there, but to think it was about pursuit!
If it was a pursuit and not an ordinary curse or debuff, it would be the worst penalty for someone like her who was trying to stand up as a new third power.
“Anyway, they thought no one would come and prevent Pyrot-Cocri’s revival… and thus did such a thing—”
“You catch on quickly. Use that quick wit constructively…”
Cough.
Blood gushed from Bahamut’s mouth.
The blood streamed down his beard like a crimson fountain, covering the pristine snow.
『If you― know Ha Leeha, then Ha Leeha would never forgive you.』
“It doesn’t matter. Anyway, forgiving and being forgiven aren’t possible between us.”
『Well, that’s good. A parting gift… it will serve Ha Leeha well.』
Cough, cough.
Thud…
After a series of continuous coughs, Bahamut’s massive body collapsed. The eyes of the fallen Bahamut looked skyward with a loud crash.
“Pyro! Melt it quickly! It’s ice related to the spirits of snow and frost. If we start melting it, they might start moving on their side!”
Chiyou commanded Pyro irritably.
Bahamut was smiling.
The Platinum Dragon, who knew that Arcane Bullet was here, couldn’t possibly have sent no message to the Spirit King he had once worked with.
Unaware of this, Chiyou was in a hurry, but until all tasks were completed, there would be no situation where Lumi and other snow and ice spirits emerged.
『Sigh…』
Bahamut let out a long breath.
To the extent that Chiyou’s side paid no attention to the fallen dragon, he was not able to exert any influence.
Even the light emanating from his chest was fading, and the foes who killed him held no interest in him—a lonely end.
In front of a remote cave in the snowy, windy mountain range, thus Bahamut was dying.
『Please… take care of them, my children. And…』
As he looked to the sky, Bahamut opened his mouth.
Shhhhhh──────────
Finally, the light disappeared. Bahamut then closed his eyes.
At that moment, a system notification window appeared for Chiyou and the other users.
You have acquired the achievement of Pure Continuing Wrath.
You have acquired the achievement Eternal Enemy of the Metallic Dragon.
The symbol of the Platinum’s purity and eternity.
Unlike other dragons, Bahamut, the lord of the Metal Dragons and a Platinum Dragon, bestowed two gifts upon those remaining.
“That damned dragon!”
Chiyou’s face twisted in anger upon confirming the achievements.
* * *
“Blaugrunn!”
Upon hearing of Bahamut’s death, Leeha and Ram Hwajung immediately arrived at Bahamut’s lair.
There, many Metal Dragons, including the still-unconscious Bailephus and Alexander, were assembled, awaiting medical treatment.
“Ha Leeha!”
Blaugrunn ran to Leeha. Ram Hwajung also caught sight of Arzenmacht.
Arzenmacht walked toward Ram Hwajung as well. His steps lacked any strength.
“The Lord. Gone. Sad.”
“Yes, he is no longer with us.”
Ram Hwajung, with teary eyes, embraced Arzenmacht. The Silver Dragon, looking melancholy, patted Ram Hwajung’s head.
While the partners comforted each other, Kurpke, who was sitting in a daze, looked at Leeha.
“Are you… Ha Leeha?”
“Ah, yes.”
Leeha didn’t even remember his name, only recalling him as the bronze dragon who had been with Zelreja.
“Come, sit.”
“Pardon?”
However, from now on, he had to remember.
“The Lord… had words left for you.”
Even as Bahamut was dying, he managed to use the ‘message spell’ to convey some final words, making him the sole dragon capable of doing so.
* * *
『Then Alexander-ssi, are you saying you don’t remember the situation of Bahamut’s death?』
『That’s right. I was in a ‘fainted’ state back then. Bailephus couldn’t have known either.』
『It’s hard to grasp the concept of ‘fainting’, what does fainting mean in Middle Earth? While Bailephus is an NPC, it can be understandable, but you, Alexander-ssi, are a user.』
『It is akin to being connected to the system but with all senses cut off. To be precise, it’s similar to having suddenly been left alone in a dark room. I couldn’t hear or see anything. I was in a state where even logging out was impossible until Saintess Raphaela completely healed me. Do you understand? At that time, I could have died to even a goblin.』
The talk show’s host nodded with a shocked expression.
Alexander sat cross-legged on the guest chair.
The actual image of Alexander on TV was something even Leeha was seeing for the first time.
‘To say fainting… it’s similar in principle to those who collapse when faced with the uncanny. Does it cut off all senses? But what if someone isn’t able to recover and doesn’t die in that state? Do they just remain there until they naturally recover slowly?’
Was it a situation where a user gets temporarily trapped between logged-in and logged-out states? Were there any penalties or time limits linked to that state?
Beside Leeha, who watched the screen with a serious face, Kijung was munching on snacks.
“Wow, that guy talks the same way inside Middle Earth as he does here. Is his unique concept not really a concept, but his actual personality? It feels something like that.”
“Hehe, doesn’t it?”
Leeha lightly responded to Kijung before focusing on the TV again.
The MC promptly asked Alexander another question.
『Then who do you predict will be the next Platinum Dragon? Is Gold Dragon Bailephus, your partner dragon, the most likely candidate? If so, this means you’d become the first user to have a Platinum Dragon as a partner, thus indirectly holding command over the future policies of the Metal Dragons. If Bailephus becomes the Platinum Dragon, what approach do you plan on taking about the relationship with the Chromatic Dragons, considering both Tiamat and the elder Onyx have died?』
『I’m not aware of any decisions made in that regard, and nothing is confirmed yet.』
『However, there seems to be no opposition to Bailephus being the most likely—』
『No, the Metal Dragons will proceed with a fair selection meeting that fully reflects the opinion of the former Platinum Dragon Bahamut.』
『Does that mean you’re considering the possibility that Bailephus might not become the Platinum Dragon?』
『Of course.』
Alexander nodded. Neither Kijung nor Leeha seemed surprised.
After Bahamut’s death, they had heard similar talks from not just Blaugrunn but also from Kurpke.
“Come to think of it, it’s been about seven days in Middle Earth time since Bahamut died, hasn’t it?”
“Hmm… it’s been about one and a half days, so approximately that much?”
Lark killed Tiamat.
Leeha killed Onyx, who tried to absorb his heart.
During that time, Chiyou killed Bahamut with Arcane Sniper.
They entered Peklo City and awakened Pyrot-Cocri.
Leeha moved to Bahamut’s lair to get advice from Kurpke.
The official history recorded on Middle Earth’s website stated that 『the leaders of both the Metal Dragons and Chromatic Dragons died on the same day.』
Moreover, it was the day 『Phase 4』 began.
A day and a half had passed in reality since then.
The event resonated not only in online communities but beyond.
As soon as the Tiamat battle began, the stocks of Goople soared to the upper limit for two consecutive days.
The world’s largest market cap company, which should have shown little fluctuation given its high unit price, had two consecutive days of explosive price rises? The media couldn’t just sit back and watch.
A re-examination of Middle Earth, which was practically virtual reality, began, and thanks to broadcasters who edited user-uploaded videos related to the Tiamat war into a movie-like format, even those who hadn’t tried Middle Earth were rushing to purchase connection devices.
Of course, interviews with various famous figures couldn’t be left out.
And when talking about fame? Naturally, Alexander, ranked number one, was the primary choice for appearances.
“Man, originally, hyung would have been sitting in that spot.”
“When could I have gone to the U. S.? I got tons of offers from PDs who even wanted to hold interviews in Korea… I declined them all.”
Leeha had received many offers too.
Initially, he refused because he couldn’t organize his thoughts about the events in Middle Earth, but upon further consideration, it was an inevitable rejection from the start.
“It’s just a shame, isn’t it? Hyung, do you know what they say about your skills on the internet? Did you watch those Ytube videos?”
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“Kek, I saw it too. The title was ‘A Bug in Middle Earth Has Appeared’, right?”
“I was watching when you were aiming at Pyrot-Cocri, and I was as shocked as you can imagine! It’s strange if players aren’t surprised after witnessing something on a whole different level…”
Listening to Kijung, Leeha simply chuckled lightly.
The players who had only faced the “White Reaper” within the game were already perceiving it more as a bug than a skill.
Of course, that was right after the war ended. Once the “bug” was identified as a skill and stories of who used that skill started spreading in the community, it firmly established itself as the skill used by the “White Reaper, Ha Leeha.”
Many regular players were mobilized to infuse mana into the special mana supply device.
Expecting nothing to be said from them, after receiving their help, was a vain hope.
In short, the reason Leeha refused interviews was simple.
Even though internet videos were already circulating, and communities were practically exploding with it, he had no intention of further exposing his real-world identity.
In Middle Earth, there were many allies, but there were just as many enemies.
Considering the state of “Chiyou”, as GM mentioned at one point?
‘With Chiyou’s personality, she would enjoy competing within the game… However, the worst-case scenario must also be considered.’
That she still had a following at this point indicated that she possessed a certain degree of influence in reality as well.
While she might not rival someone like Ram Hwayeon, the fact that Chiyou could be involved with ‘real-world violence’ meant exposing his face and location would be disadvantageous.
A sharpshooter known to everyone is another way of saying ‘a soldier on the brink of death.’
“Kre, anyway! It’s a shame. Despite your achievements, hyung isn’t on TV, while others get the spotlight… I mean, shouldn’t they at least recommend me?”
“Hehe, do you think they’d call you, Kijung? There’s a video among the latest internet updates showing Ghibrid fighting with you and Luger, but it’s not nearly as popular.”
The number one view count on YouTube regarding the Tiamat battle was, unsurprisingly, Leeha’s “White Reaper”.
‘There were still people who didn’t believe it… But I accidentally became more famous than the ‘Dragon Slayer, Lark’.’
Some players mistakenly thought that skill had killed Tiamat.
However, whether this was fortunate or unfortunate, those who needed to know knew.
The second most-watched video depicted Lark plunging his sword into Tiamat, absorbing colorful auroras into his blade!
This video was just as popular as Leeha’s.
And what about the third place?
It was a fierce competition between the scenes of Alexander and Bailephus blocking Tiamat’s Breath in “Fusion” mode, and Kidd—Ram Hwajung’s ‘Igor—Pyro Chimera’ hunt.
Despite the intense battles of metal dragons and chromatic dragons, the ‘Giant Armored Vehicle’ of Karelin and the giants, and Pei Wu’s defense line with the Yellow Dragon Chimera, Kijung was out of the broadcast spotlight because there wasn’t any footage of him.
“I’m so mad! My footage is set at the ‘Dinosaurization’ angle, so it’s tricky to release… Didn’t Luger record it, too? Why isn’t he releasing it? He’s such a jerk.”
“Hey, do you think Luger would release it? They say he tore Ghibrid’s body apart with that incredible bullet. Given his personality, he wouldn’t release a video beneficial to someone else.”
“Aye… but I was the one who blocked the entire Chimera defense line at the start of the war.”
Kijung grumbled, lying down in frustration.
Meanwhile, Alexander was still having a conversation with the MC on TV. When the host couldn’t get the desired response about ‘Dragon Domination by Users,’ he shifted the topic.
『Then, what do you think about the Phases? Middle Earth always provided players with the joy of puzzles through cryptic phrases.』
“Oh! Right, Phase 4. What do you think, hyung? We never clearly interpreted even the Phase 3 phrases.”
Kijung sat up abruptly, fixing his gaze on the screen.
Leeha had already confirmed the phrases on the official homepage. On the screen appeared the existing Phase 3 phrase.
『The end is not the end. Beyond the limit of 3.』
『Many assumed it signified surpassing the existing highest level of users, that is, level 300, didn’t they? However, Alexander had already surpassed Level 300 a long time ago… Hence, most speculated that it must have another meaning. What does it mean to say the third phase of this phrase has passed?』
At the host’s question, Alexander placed his chin on his hand and thought for a moment.
Kijung, watching him, said, “Even pretending to think looks handsome on him,” but it went unnoticed by Leeha.
After organizing his thoughts briefly, Alexander finally spoke up.
『Three things.』
『Excuse me?』
『It can be narrowed down to three. Middle Earth always poses multi-layered questions. The limit of three doesn’t just derive from the number 300 but signifies surpassing three conditions to get past the ‘end.’ It refers to three conditions at the juncture where we thought of as the ‘end’.』
『A new hypothesis, indeed. Then what are those three? Three users above Level 300? Or three users with second class changes?』
The host, appearing as if he had found a clue, asked Alexander for an answer eagerly.
Hearing the host’s words, Alexander shook his head.
『That’s not possible. Both Level 300 and the second class change were revealed during Phase 2. Knowing they weren’t the ‘end’, they cannot be it.』
『Then…?』
『There were things we thought of as the end concerning weapons or achievements.』
『Weapons or achievements―Ah, right! Everyone thought ‘legend’ was the ultimate for items, and ‘S+’ was the ultimate for achievements. Then―.』
With the host’s eyes widening, Alexander nodded in agreement.
『The emergence of three or more mythical-grade items and the emergence of three or more R- rank achievements. It’s possible that it’s either one or both of those.』
“Wow!? That’s right! Hyung has already received one R- rank, first of all! But… that was just recently. Could there already be two R- rank achievements?”
“They might have emerged.”
Leeha nodded while listening to Alexander’s hypothesis. It was a premise they had also considered.
Three users surpassing Level 300? More than three users with a second class change?
Surely, they’d heard from the GM that mere numbers like that couldn’t clear Phase 3. Thus, the conditions to clear Phase 3 must lie elsewhere.
“Hmm? Who?”
『R- rank achievement! It’s known that a user with an interesting job title ‘White Reaper’, Ha Leeha, was the first to achieve this! The video from the recent Tiamat war was truly astonishing. However, it’s not been long since Ha Leeha acquired the R- rank achievement. Could another user have surfaced already?』
Kijung and the host asked simultaneously.
Leeha and Alexander answered simultaneously.
“Lark.”
『The Rainbow Knight and Dragon Slayer.』
“Oh! Right! After killing Tiamat―.”
『―The sight of those subtle rainbow colors flowing across the sky like a river was indeed impressive, wasn’t it? It would be wonderful to hear directly from Lark, but let’s arrange that opportunity for another time.』
Though incomplete, everyone had already witnessed Tiamat’s formidable power.
Moreover, hadn’t Leeha listened to Lark about the power of Lark’s sword and the conditions for killing Tiamat?
Approach directly, insert the sword, Use the skill.
Instructions so straightforward that courage seemed hard to muster. An R- rank wouldn’t have been granted to the user who accomplished that without reason.
『Then who is the other person?』
『”I don’t know.”』
Alexander replied sharply.
One was Leeha, one was Lark, and the other?
Several names floated through Alexander’s mind, but he quickly shook his head. However, the American talk show host was a professional.
He, without a hint of fluster, praised Alexander’s sense of humor with a smile.
『Great! Then let’s move on to the mythic grade items. Is it possible that Alexander-ssi already possesses any of them?』
Alexander quietly stared at the host.
The host swallowed dryly and forced an awkward smile.
Even if one attempted to skillfully manage a broadcast, once it reached a point of impending disaster, it was beyond the host’s control.
『Such things― you can’t talk about on-air, right? Yes, I understand. Then, you mentioned either a mythic grade or R- rank achievement; is there another condition or achievement you have in mind?』
『Yes. The limit of three signifies three things. At least one or two conditions remain.』
『Then what are the remaining conditions?』
“…… Peklo City.”
“Huh? Leeha-hyung?”
“One of the three. The complete resurrection of all three Demon King’s Fragments.”
An event that could never have occurred in Phase 2.
Due to Leeha’s incredibly rapid progression, the additional fragment was acknowledged as an unending event.
Knowing about Pyrot-Cocri’s resurrection, Kijung was no longer surprised. He simply frowned, instinctively sensing that the upcoming battles would be grueling.
Alexander spoke calmly.
『One is the complete resurrection of the Demon King’s Fragments. Specifically, that the Undead Queen, Pyrot-Cocri, has awakened.』
The host alternated glances between Alexander and the camera in astonishment.
It was rare to see the experienced host’s eyes roll like marbles.
『Py, Pyrot-Cocri, you say……』
『The third Demon King’s Fragment. She has awakened.』
The fact that Pyrot-Cocri had awakened in Peklo City had not yet been officially announced.
Only a select few users familiar with Chiyou and Arcane Sniper’s affairs, as well as the ‘Pope’s’ closest associates who could sense the Demon King’s Fragments, were informed.
Yet Alexander had abruptly revealed this in the broadcast.
『Th, that’s such―that fact―all of a sudden… Is it true? Speaking so suddenly like this―Alexander-ssi?』
Alexander suddenly stood up.
His action was so abrupt that the host couldn’t even react.
He walked toward the camera, which captured his upper body perfectly.
『And if there is another likely condition, it is the emergence of a third force. Everyone has been thinking only of the ‘Sacred Alliance’ and ‘Demon King’s Army,’ believing that was the ‘end.’ But we must be mindful that a third entity has emerged. The ‘Third Zone’, where three forces can compete in a three-way battle, which is a common method in Middle Earth.』
The host’s voice mumbled something, but it was no longer broadcast nor captured by the camera.
Only Alexander remained on the screen, watched by viewers worldwide.
He took a deep breath. Leeha also clenched his fist tightly.
The crucial aspect now was not the resurrection of Pyrot-Cocri but informing about the third force, the most threatening part of the upcoming battles, and urging the users to be cautious and gather information.
“Speak, Alexander-ssi.”
“Hyung? What were you talking about with Alexander?”
“For the battles ahead… something absolutely necessary.”
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It had already been one of the things he discussed with Leeha.
If ever given the opportunity to inform others, it had to be done efficiently and precisely.
『The one leading this third faction is indeed user “Chiyou”, who had become a vampire-class user, along with user “Agromni Igor”, user “Pyro”, and…』
“Yes! Or rather… and? Why ‘and’?”
When Leeha spoke with Alexander, it was about revealing the existence of Chiyou’s faction.
Even though Chiyou had already been stigmatized as part of the Demon King’s army, the real danger was that she had become an even more malevolent force hindering the regular players of Middle Earth.
Naturally, the main pillars of this group were Chiyou, Agromni Igor, and Pyro. They couldn’t reveal everyone hiding in the shadows, like Shinobigumi and Yamato.
What reason did Alexander have to use the word ‘and’ even when there seemed to be no room for it?
‘Could it be… No, he shouldn’t say that much!’
Leeha felt a wave of unease.
He had some leeway to figure things out in other ways. Knowing Alexander to some extent, having moved together before, he pondered if Alexander thought the same way.
Leeha should have considered those aspects during the conversation with Alexander in the dead Bahamut’s lair, especially given Alexander’s emotions as someone who had bonded with Bahamut long before Leeha did, owing to his rank 1 position.
『NPC Arcane Sniper, “Kyle”.』
Alexander did not merely want to bring down Chiyou’s faction.
He had a personal vendetta against the Arcane Sniper, who was a sworn enemy of Bahamut.
『Any user or NPC colluding with or aiding them will be considered a traitor to the “Sacred Alliance”!
I have already informed Commander Ewin about this. Of course, those who inform us about their activities and hiding places will be rewarded in the name of the “Sacred Alliance.”』
『Yes, that, Phase 4! For Phase 4, we will continue this discussion in part 2, after a short break―.』
Leeha switched off the TV.
A stunned Kijung said nothing to Leeha.
“Hyung… Arcane Sniper… is that what you mentioned before?”
“Damn it! We need to persuade Kyle back to our side.”
It would not benefit Leeha to turn Kyle into an enemy, and revealing such significant information about Arcane Sniper would be a regrettable move.
If either Elizabeth or Brown were to die because of this…
If users acted hastily due to Alexander’s grand persuasion, causing something to happen?
Kyle might never come back.
Despite being Arcane Sniper, with a limited number of bullets, and given that users would fiercely pursue him, it would be nearly impossible for him to endure.
“The conversation didn’t go as you planned with Alexander, did it?”
“Yes. It’s infuriating. After all that effort in Bahamut’s lair, Alexander just decided everything on his own.”
As Leeha stood up and headed for the refrigerator, Kijung, watching him cautiously, asked quietly.
“So, what do you think, hyung?”
“About what?”
“What do you think Phase 4 means?”
Phase 4 was something that wasn’t fully revealed even in the broadcast with Alexander.
Leeha contemplated the phrase:
『Pandora’s box must be opened. Whatever it contains.』
“Pandora’s box supposedly had all the world’s evils inside… Ah, and hope remained at the end. Isn’t that how the story goes, hyung?”
When Leeha did not respond, Kijung spoke first, sharing his guess. Leeha nodded as he listened to Kijung.
At this point, Leeha actually knew what the phrase “needs to be opened” was referring to.
“It was probably meant to be like Pandora’s Box… perhaps it’s ‘The Stairway to Heaven’.”
“Huh?”
“I mentioned it last time. The door in Laputa.”
“Oh, oh! That’s it!”
Kijung exclaimed in excitement. The interpretation of the first phrase was predictable enough.
But what about the second one?
‘No matter what’s inside it…?’
What was inside it?
As someone who had already visited Saur Land and Laputa, Leeha had a fairly certain idea of what was there.
“Then when that door opens, won’t… some new monsters or something appear?”
“Who knows.”
Like the existing Shimo and White Reaper, winged figures that appeared somewhat angelic might be there.
Leeha chuckled lightly as he spoke.
Wouldn’t they be individuals granted some degree of divine power? If they appeared as ‘monsters’ and as Leeha’s enemies?
“Well, in some ways, it might turn out well.”
“What do you mean?”
“I told you about Black Bass, didn’t I? My weapon.”
“Yes, you mentioned that after capturing Tiamat, some percentage went up.”
Kijung nodded.
Leeha smiled slyly, recalling one achievement he had acquired.
〈Achievement: The Last Step(S+)〉
Congratulations!
You have reached the stage just before liberating one of the sealed weapons in Middle Earth, 『Black Bass』. What arduous efforts have you undergone, and what demanding events have you endured to get here?
Now, you must choose whether to surpass legend even if it means being covered in blood, or to relish the world of Middle Earth with your sufficiently heightened skills.
Surely, there can be no regrets regardless of the choice. Middle Earth awaits your decision, thanking you for your efforts thus far.
Reward: 30 stat points
You are the second registrant of the 〈The Last Step〉 achievement.
The firsth three registrant will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with effects increased by 200%.
Effect: 60 stat points
“Yes. The charge rate related to the seal increased. Hehe… Even though I didn’t directly kill Tiamat, at least nibbling at it seemed to have been worth it.”
“What did you nibble on?”
“No, ahem! Anyway, there’s something of that sort.”
He had killed Tiamat and Onyx.
To be exact, he killed Onyx as it absorbed Tiamat’s Dragon Heart.
In the end, Tiamat’s essence of magic seemed to be contained within that heart.
‘Seeing that the charge rate of Black Bass reached 75% in an instant… that must be it!’
How long had the charge rate stagnated at 50%?
For Leeha, who thought one of the Demon King’s Fragments must be killed to fill the remaining 25% related to magic, this situation felt like a winning lottery ticket.
One of the achievements that arose from this was precisely ‘The Last Step’.
Even with 90 stat points, which was undoubtedly significant, the reward wasn’t as special as he expected.
He could understand why.
‘It’s literally part of the process. It’s like a bonus for users going through such arduous paths that the GM described as toil.’
What caught Leeha’s eye was that he was the second registrant for this achievement.
Who else possessed a sealed weapon?
‘Kidd and Luger. But… it can’t be them.’
Leeha had been confident in himself. All of the weapons possessed by the Three Musketeers were Ego weapons. However, he believed that he would have been the first to awaken his own consciousness and have shown the fastest progress regarding charging and release.
Then there were individuals outside the Three Musketeers.
“Alexander or… Lark?”
Killing Tiamat was such an impressive achievement, after all. Of course, unless he asked them directly, Leeha had no way of knowing.
“Now, what’s left is to kill those related to God. Well, if monsters like angels comes out when ‘Stairway to Heaven’ is opened, maybe I could fill up the remaining charge rate.”
He had mentioned that it would be fine even if monsters appeared when the door was opened, and this was exactly why.
Kijung listened to Leeha’s words, nodding.
“Absorbing blood… That weapon’s settings are really bizarre.”
“Keke, don’t even mention it. Last time, it saw you and tried to entice me, saying that it would give me a 3% charge if I killed you.”
“Huh? Me?”
“If you kill those who serve gods, the divine power bearers, you can raise the charge… If there’s no other way, Kijung, you might—”
“N-no way! Don’t even joke about that!”
As Leeha crept closer, Kijung quickly shuffled back from his seated position. Watching Kijung retreat faster than most insects, Leeha burst into laughter.
While Leeha laughed, Kijung suddenly clapped his hands together with a sound of realization, saying “Ah!”
“But you mentioned absorbing the blood of gods, right? The goal of that Black Bass weapon.”
“What? Yeah. Why? Trying to die? Haha, if you would die for me, I would gratefully—”
“No, no, then why not just literally absorb the blood of a god?”
“What? What are you talking about?”
Kijung tilted his head, asking the question, but even Leeha, who received the question, could not answer it.
Absorb the blood of a god?
How conceptual could that even be?
“How can one absorb the blood of gods?! To begin with, they have to exist. Even on Middle Earth, gods only conceptually exist. If I go to the Ezwen Papacy and ask them to donate just a drop of blood on a piece of artwork—”
“I have one.”
“—for charity, just one drop—What? What?”
Leeha looked at Kijung. Kijung was also looking at Leeha.
The cousins stared at each other’s dumbfounded faces for quite some time.
“What did you say, Kijung?”
“… I have an item I received from the Vatican. It’s a holy relic containing the blood of the main god—”
“Really… it’s blood?”
“Yeah, judging by Petyr’s reaction, I’m sure it is. It was used to kill the undead leader of the ‘Midnight Circus’—”
“Hey, you idiot! Why didn’t you say so earlier!”
When Leeha shouted, Kijung flinched. However, a bright smile spread across Leeha’s face.
“Oh, what? Hyung, you didn’t ask! You have to say you need it—or when fighting the Demon King’s Fragment, I was going to give it to you eventually, but these days—”
“You idiot! You lovely idiot!”
Leeha rushed at Kijung and ruffled his hair with a whirlwind of hands.
For Kijung, it felt like a mutated ‘headlock’, but anyway, the cousin siblings laughed together as they rolled around for quite some time.
“Log in right now, Kijung!”
“I got it! Ahh, my head. Hyung, you log in first!”
With that spat settled, Leeha practically pushed Kijung out of the house. Then, he turned his attention to the Middle Earth connection device.
“The blood of the main god!”
Didn’t they say heaven helps those who help themselves? With the demon charge percentage at 25%, now only the 25% divine charge remained!
“Perhaps… Perhaps now—”
He could achieve 100%. No, Leeha was somewhat sure of it.
“It’s a complete seal release, black.”
Leeha reclined on the Middle Earth connection device.
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“Absolutely not allowed!”
One cardinal sprang to his feet and shouted. Aside from his handsome appearance, he distinctly looked younger than the surrounding cardinals.
The fact that he wielded significant influence at this gathering, and the fact that he became a cardinal at a young age, was more than enough to prove his capabilities.
“Blasphemy! It’s blasphemy! If you had witnessed the feats of the Holy Knight and the Exorcism Cardinal in the battle against Tiamat, you would never say such words! This can only be seen as Cardinal Sergio’s narrow-minded remarks aimed at belittling the achievements of the Exorcism Cardinal!”
The pope, sitting across from Sergio, was hastily pointing fingers as he spoke.
However, Sergio, being criticized, shook his head with a rather aggrieved expression.
“How can you not know that I do not intend to underestimate that war! The ‘Key of Jannate’ must be preserved and studied for the development of theories and doctrines within the diocese! Just because of deeds in the war—do you mean to say that it can be freely handed over to a man like Ha Leeha? Even if C9 were to permit it… we won’t be able to convince the numerous believers supporting the ‘Spiritual Symbolism.’ Isn’t that right, cardinal Parnese?”
“Cardinal Sergio is right. I also acknowledge the feats of the Exorcism Cardinal, who splendidly led the paladins against Tiamat. However, do you claim that merely blocking the external invaders is the sole duty of our Ezwen Papacy?”
“That, that is not entirely… .”
The interconnected statements from Sergio and Parnese were enough to make the surroundings restless.
This included Raphaela, who also attended the debate. While most users and NPCs bustled about the Tiamat battle, there was a different movement within the Ezwen Papacy’s internal affairs.
‘Damn it, I should have considered the possibility… Those cunning foxes wouldn’t have stayed still.’
It was a public debate on the value of the Key of Jannate!
Naturally, the factions of the pope and the opposition couldn’t engage in any dirty factional fights in such a public setting, with general believers attending en masse. The card Parnese’s faction played was precisely the ‘Doctrine Battle.’
The ancient debate surrounding the ‘Key of Jannate,’ backed by the nearly majority stance of ‘Spiritual Symbolism’, had been set forth as the card of the anti-pope faction.
When Raphaela received the notification about this debate, everything had already fallen into their clutches.
“The ‘Physical Substantialism’ is a minority view. Obviously, because it couldn’t be verified!”
In the Ezwen Papacy square, the level of conversation between the panels divided left and right on the well-setup debate stage was precisely that.
A doctrinal defense for ‘Physical Substantialism’? There’s no way to prepare such a thing in a day or two.
The pope’s faction, who could only prepare for the war by supplying materials related to the battle with Tiamat, and dispatching priests, was unable to deal with the sudden debate.
Reluctantly, they tried to highlight Kijung’s endeavors during the war, but it did not resonate with them.
How does Kijung’s endeavors relate to handing the ‘Key of Jannate’ to Ha Leeha to be sent back to Laputa?
As they participated without being able to perfectly bridge that logical connection, it was only natural that the NPC general believers of Ezwen and the user groups specializing in the holy powers focused on Parnese’s side.
Parnese briefly met Sergio’s eyes, then spoke again.
“Opening the closed minds of humans who still did not long for salvation from God was no small task. The power of the ‘Key of Jannate’ as a symbol was certainly considerable. This wasn’t merely the opinion of a humble cardinal like me. Indeed, it was a compilation of views from all dioceses that supported the ‘Spiritual Symbolism.’ We present this to Your Holiness.”
Confronting them suddenly when they had already devised their plan was certainly a challenge. A paper envelope was soon delivered to the Pope, who had attended as the chairman of the open discussion.
The Pope’s assistant cardinal opened it, took a look, and relayed the contents to the Pope.
“It states… the opinions of 41 out of the 50 dioceses on the Lope Continent are included.”
“Forty-one?”
The Pope asked in a voice filled with disbelief. Raphaela was just as bewildered. Forty-one out of fifty dioceses!
‘Impossible, given the history of activities by myself and Master Kay! We’ve already garnered significant support for C9 selection!’
Was it enough to overturn everything? Just as Raphaela stood to speak, Parnese addressed the Pope.
“Not all bishops support the ‘Spiritual Symbolism’, Your Holiness. Some bishops suspect that the recent discovery of Laputa might be a place intended to test us, the lambs. Wouldn’t you agree, cardinal Sergio?”
Not all 41 dioceses supported the ‘Spiritual Symbolism’.
They weren’t opposing the transfer of the ‘Key of Jannate’ to Laputa with Ha Leeha!
However, Parnese had cleverly mixed the opinions of diocesan heads who belonged to his faction or were neutral but supportive of the ‘Spiritual Symbolism’!
‘It’s cowardly… You shouldn’t mix them like that! People only remember numbers, after all!’
Even though Parnese stated, “Not all of them are like that”, the spectators, both users and NPCs, at the open discussion began to murmur.
Raphaela could easily guess who came up with this idea.
Sergio, pointed out by Parnese, stood with a confident pose. He nodded at the Pope and looked at the general audience attending the discussion.
“Indeed, Your Holiness is already aware of this matter, I presume. Ever since the discovery of Laputa, our church has faced unprecedented division. Would it be beneficial to provoke the supporters of the ‘Physical Substantialism’ who wanted to meet the god Ahlo? They’ve remained a minority. I understand their excitement about a chance to meet the god or possessing the ‘Stairway to Heaven’ key―.”
“Wait a moment! Cardinal Sergio is making disrespectful remarks towards all scholars supporting the ‘Physical Substantialism’!”
“Not at all, Raphaela. I acknowledge that a synthesis of thesis and antithesis is vital for healthy doctrinal development. But does that mean we must bear existential risks? That is a different issue, wouldn’t you agree?”
“Existential issues?”
Raphaela stood hurriedly to interrupt Sergio’s remarks, but it was not easy.
Sergio nodded, addressing her words.
“I believe you’re well aware of Laputa’s location.”
“The eastern part… of the New Continent.”
“Precisely. Although Tiamat is presumed to be eliminated or sealed, threats still abound. Especially now, with Pyrot-Cocri awakened? With three Demon King’s Fragment fully awakened—do you believe the ‘Key of Jannate’, which symbolizes the Vatican itself, should be sent into such a dangerous—nest of evil? If attacked, I’d like to ask who, or how, you plan to hold accountable.”
As Sergio spoke, attendees and NPCs began to murmur intensely. Cardinals on the side of the Pope’s Faction did the same. Naturally, it was the complete opposite situation for the Anti-Pope’s Faction.
The anti-Papal cardinals were in such a high spirit that Parnese was even tapping Sergio on the hip encouragingly as he spoke standing up.
Raphaela thought of an idea with all her might.
“This is idle argumentation! Do you think the job of a cardinal is to crouch down and merely interpret the scriptures? We should be seeking and proving the paths beyond missionary work to directly encounter God! This too is our duty—”
“Certainly, I’d like to do that too. But, Raphaela, have you considered that very proof, the ‘evidence’?”
“Pardon?”
Raphaela’s statement had caused a slight ripple, but that was all. It was insufficient to topple the thorough preparations made by Parnese’s AI.
Sergio took advantage of the momentum.
“The absence of evidence is also a problem. Even if we risk going to the New Continent, there’s no proof that something like the ‘Stairway to Heaven’ key exists there, nor that the divinely empowered reside there—there’s nothing besides the testimony from a handful of people including Leeha.”
“Are you going to label individuals like Alexander, Leeha, and Fernand as merely a ‘handful’?”
“I’m not trying to disparage their faith… But without concrete evidence, we cannot take such risks, can we? We cannot gamble with the symbols of the Papal authority. I am speaking as a devout member of the diocese, offering my candid advice. I sincerely ask that you consider our opinions, Your Holiness.”
Sergio spoke humbly without an ounce of arrogance, even bowing his head slightly.
Raphaela had no chance to interject. The pope could not counter with a single remark.
Clap… Claps—!
Wowwwwwwww———————
Right on!
Sergio is correct! We can’t just hand over such significant symbols based on mere words!
Asking blindly without evidence is not right!
The public sentiment had been completely seized.
The crowd filling Ezwen Papal Square applauded in agreement with Sergio’s opinion.
A few supported Raphaela’s stance, but with the public opinion swayed, it was like striking a rock with an egg.
After leaving the atmosphere to free-fall for a while, Pope Urban II raised a hand to calm the hall.
“I believe the cardinals’ in-depth discussions on our church have been sufficiently heard. Ultimately, this matter will be decided through a vote three days later by the heads of the 50 dioceses on the Lope Continent… after the nine cardinal committee that reflects the members’ opinions within those dioceses is entirely appointed, we will deliberate again.”
As the pope spoke, Sergio gently raised his hand. The pope wished to conclude his speech quickly, but he couldn’t disregard Sergio, who waited for his turn to speak.
That too was the terror of a ‘public’ debate. Once the pope pointed to Sergio, Sergio finally drove in the final nail.
“I believe our Spiritual Symbolism faction’s opinion has been sufficiently communicated. Therefore, when collating the opinions of each diocese three days later…”
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Sergio’s lips twitched for a moment, but he never laughed.
“Unless the ‘Physical Substantialism’ group prepares solid evidence, can we assume there will be no surprises?”
It was a kind of wedge. There was nothing that could be prepared at this point. Revisiting Laputa? That seemed impossible.
Even if they did return, it would all be crushed.
‘Wrong… Even if Master Kay’s speech video is shown everywhere—right now, the diocese will not move.’
No matter how many users there were, most of the diocese-level leaders were ultimately NPCs. Unless there was a weapon to completely subdue them?
‘We might lose.’
Raphaela nodded with a bright smile. Though she managed her expressions better than Sergio, inside, she was exceedingly anxious.
The pope nodded, declaring the meeting closed. Until the opinions of the nine-cardinal committee were collected, there were three days left.
Leeha accessed the system. It took a considerable amount of in-game time for Kijung to access at home, so Leeha headed somewhere other than the New Continent.
“I should finally do some proper work this time.”
He busily moved to manage his holdings in Gaza City.
* * *
“There’s no real problem, is there?”
Leeha quickly reviewed the documents, asking the NPC butler. The butler nodded.
Since Ram Hwayeon had established a good framework, the management of Gaza City could proceed smoothly.
“There was considerable financial consumption at the corps chief’s forge over the past week.”
“That, well… It couldn’t be helped.”
“Is that so. It was for market activation and road maintenance budgets, but― due to the urgent reallocation of accounting categories…”
Though the voice was calm, the pressure Leeha felt was beyond imagination. From the NPC’s point of view, the lord always caused financial issues whenever he came, so it was hard to think favorably of Leeha.
Of course, because of buffs like 『Dignity』, a clear hierarchy was established, so he never openly opposed Leeha, yet Leeha had no desire to refute his logical words.
“Alright, alright. This week, don’t aim for any profits; use all incoming revenue for expenditures. Is that fine?”
“It should be maintained like that until next week.”
“Ugh, anyway.”
Even at Hwahong guild, a considerable amount of resources were consumed when creating a mana supply device for Ram Hwajung.
Moreover, how much more would it need to be enhanced to handle the mana flow for thousands of people?
Leeha had to bear the cost of purchasing various rare minerals for Bottleneck as well as the delay in fortification repairs due to focusing solely on equipment production for Luger, Kidd, and himself.
‘Now that I think about it, this is infuriating. Kidd and Luger barely paid anything, and they hadn’t even fully paid the balance, only the down payment.’
Though having Bottleneck in Gaza City was convenient, sacrificing resources first at such times seemed unavoidable. Leeha glanced at his friends list with a smile.
‘I can’t let that happen.’
By doubling the production charges for Kidd and Luger through Bottleneck and stopping the supply of bullets until they paid the outstanding balance?
He could fully recoup the money Kidd and Luger had earned from looting during the Tiamat war.
“Heh, I’m really a genius. Still, it’s a pity. If only these achievements had been pre-assigned, the procurement of minerals would have been much easier.”
Leeha checked the achievement windows.
Two achievements obtained from killing Onyx with Tiamat caught his eye.
〈Achievement: Removed the Core of the Chromatic Dragon. (S+)〉
Congratulations!
You defeated the elder level ancient dragon 『Onyx』, who led the chromatic dragons. Until a new leader emerged, the chromatic dragons were to remain dormant, resting in their lairs. Your actions earned you the respect of the metal dragons that guarded the frontier, but they also incurred the wrath of the chromatic dragons. An unchecked ferocity could become even more dangerous. Do not forget that a deranged dragon could potentially attack your city, castle, or fields at any time.
Reward: 30 Stat Points
Affinity with all metal dragons increased by 15%
Permission to mine minerals within the territories of all metal dragons
Affinity with all chromatic dragons decreased by 30%
Increased likelihood of attacks by chromatic dragons
(This is a one-time event that can occur regardless of location, and the color of the dragon involved will be assigned randomly.)
You are the first to register the achievement of “Removed the Core of the Chromatic Dragon..”
The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with the existing effects being applied at 200% efficiency.
Effect: 60 Stat Points
Affinity with all metal dragons increased by 30%
Affinity with all chromatic dragons decreased by 60%
Increased likelihood of attacks by chromatic dragons
(This is a one-time event that can occur regardless of location, and the color of the dragon involved will be assigned randomly.)
“Ugh, mineral collection! Well, since things have come to this, should I ask the Beard Brothers to gather other dwarves?”
What if Leeha could organize a specialized gathering group by mass emigrating dwarves from Helanville?
Turning mineral extraction mainly towards the rare deposits of the metal dragons could become a significant source of income.
Leeha seriously contemplated this matter.
After all, additional affinity with metal dragons or further negative affinity with chromatic dragons wasn’t much of a concern for him.
‘It’s already way past -100%. What’s bothersome is the occurrence of the attack event.’
Leeha glanced at the sky outside the window. This meant that if he was unlucky, one of the deranged chromatic dragons might attack Gaza City, where he was located, at any moment.
‘What if I were at the Papacy or the capital? Would they attack then too?’
If there were enough chromatic dragons that followed the 『Elder』 to attack regardless of the location, it was possible. But Leeha chuckled at the thought.
Now that Onyx was dead?
Perhaps since Onyx was gone, another dragon would take up the role of 『Elder』. Leeha didn’t know how that dragon would act, but he was well aware of Onyx’s predictable actions.
“That’s exactly the significance of this kind of achievement.”
〈Achievement: Freedom for the Dragons!(S)〉
Congratulations!
You freed them from the clutches of the leader of the 『Chromatic』 dragons, who held more than 85% of the members’ resentment. Those who were subjugated and exploited by their de facto leader were genuinely rejoicing at the death of their oppressor. Buoyed by their newfound liberation, they would undoubtedly respect your opinions. The fact that they didn’t consume you whole is evidence of that!
Reward: 25 Stat Points
Affinity with chromatic dragons increased by 20%
Eligibility to attend the selection of the next leader
You are the first to register the “Freedom for the Dragons” achievement.
The first three registrants of the achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, with existing effects being applied at 200% efficiency.
Effect: 50 Stat Points
Affinity with chromatic dragons increased by 40%
“Heh heh… Heh heh heh! To think he earned the ire of more than 85% of the members. That Onyx dragon was truly a wretched one.”
“Perhaps it would equate to an additional achievement given for killing the leaders of Color or Metal, an S+ level accomplishment.”
The statement implied that Middle Earth could earn achievements based on the relationships not only between Color and Metal but also within each dragon faction.
Leeha understood that a certain degree of luck was necessary for such feats.
“In other words… even the ‘new’ Bahamut on the metal dragon’s side could be treated in this manner.”
This was also a direct example of how inefficient domination through sheer force could be.
Leeha scratched his chin as he gazed at the achievement window. However, he wondered about the statement below it.
“‘Eligible to attend the selection of the next leader… does that even make sense?'”
Even if a certain level of camaraderie increased, the total was still negative. How could Leeha attend the Chromatic Dragon’s leadership selection meeting?
Moreover, could someone who was vulnerable to potential random surprise attacks from the achievement above actually do such a thing?
“With the ‘Dragon Slayer’ buff, I am already sensitive to hostile dragons. Well… it would certainly be interesting if I could attend.”
Just imagining how the situation would unfold made Leeha chuckle.
“And next…”
Among the achievements obtained after the Tiamat war, there was one that left the most memorable impression.
Even more than fully charging Black Bass to 75%, it was an achievement that resonated deeply with Leeha.
〈Achievement: Shimo’s Message (S+)〉
“Congratulations!”
“You have excellently fulfilled the last task that the previous ‘White Reaper’ left behind. The outstanding flow of mana you possess and wield so well has triggered the message he imprinted on his weapon just before vanishing. Though his resting soul cannot recognize you now, he surely is overjoyed.”
Reward: 60 stat points
Skill—Snow Storm’s range increased by 50%
Skill—White Reaper’s damage increased by 30%
‘Replayable message from the White Reaper’
(This achievement does not have a Hall of Fame.)
“There is no current possession of the White Reaper’s gun.. Or more precisely… it’s here.”
Leeha grasped Black Bass. It had absorbed Shimo’s gun. Leeha had been baffled right after obtaining the achievement, but now he understood clearly.
“Black, play it.”
—”Heh heh… Understood.”—
Black Bass’s voice carried more strength than before.
Leeha believed it was because Black Bass had consumed Tiamat’s heart and had absorbed the energy to enhance its demonic charge rate, but he could not focus on that right now.
Moments later, a dazzling white light exploded from the lord’s office in Gaza City.
In front of Leeha emerged a semi-transparent image of a person: the White Reaper.
『If you are seeing this, it means you have ultimately succeeded in using 〈White Reaper〉 perfectly.』
Even though he had heard it once before, Leeha still found it amusing.
The last mission that the White Reaper, Shimo, had left was precisely the perfect use of 〈White Reaper〉.
‘My skill remains restricted. Even in 〈White Reaper—Restricted〉 status, it cleared.’
But what did it mean, having completed the mission? When Leeha first saw the video, he was flustered and tried to speak to Shimo’s spirit, but as per the achievement’s description, it was a one-sided message.
The replayed video left a message without enabling two-way communication with Leeha.
Fortunately, Shimo provided an explanation himself.
『At least 30,000 splits… It would be impossible in a restricted state.』
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The video of Shimo brought a wave of nostalgia, but the greater joy came from these words. What significance did it hold that Shimo had left such words?
“Heh, indeed. It’s something that would have been unimaginable without the mana supplier.”
Leeha, chuckling to himself, responded to Shimo’s words.
This implied that even Middle Earth’s system hadn’t anticipated being played in such a manner.
『Now that you can handle “White Reaper” freely and have been fully recognized by your rifle, you can truly operate as the White Reaper. I do not know when my record will be replayed, but I only hope it is not long after our parting.』
“Unfortunately, I’m not quite there yet. To be recognized by this guy—”
—Keh keh… You will have to achieve a 100% charge rate. Kill all humans who serve Ahlo. Then it will be possible.—
“—It says things like that. But there’s no need to kill the priests. No, there’s no need to kill them.”
Leeha let out a sigh, his expression changing rapidly as he acknowledged Black Bass’s words.
Why was he logging in right now? The management of Gaza City was important, but he must not forget the most crucial thing!
“Well, it’s been impossible so far. Black?”
—Have you finally decided to pull the trigger?—
“No, no. I’m just asking in case. What you want is definitely ‘blood,’ right?”
—You’re still asking such things… I want the blood of a god. To slurp, suck, and completely absorb its divine blood!—
“Alright, chuunibyo. You’ve confirmed it’s blood. If you go back on your words later, I’m really going to melt you down.”
Black Bass’s bolt made a clanking metallic noise, as if not understanding what Leeha was saying.
Leeha merely laughed. Talking about it now was of no use anyway.
‘Hurry up, Kijung!’
All Leeha could do was pray that Kijung would log in as soon as possible.
『As the true White Reaper… You probably want to take another step forward. And the answer… You probably already know where it is.』
“Yes, I do.”
If another step to aspire as the “White Reaper” existed, there was only one path.
Simultaneously with Shimo, Leeha uttered the same words.
『Arcane Sniper』.”
『At the peak of all snipers, you will surely reach that place. Though I cannot directly bolster your journey… I will pray here. For the name of the White Reaper to spread wide, and for you to eventually obtain what you desire.』
“Thank you.”
Leeha watched the hologram of Shimo. The hologram began to fade, as if it had conveyed all its messages.
The image of Shimo, Leeha’s third mentor who taught him another trick of sniping, disappeared just like that.
“Arcane Sniper…”
Leeha sank into his chair, contemplating the term.
《Arcane Sniper》. It was never a lightweight term whenever he heard it, but now it weighed even heavier on Leeha.
‘Bahamut…’
For one of the most trustworthy entities within Middle Earth had been killed.
And that entity had thought of him, delivering information until its dying moment.
Shimo wasn’t the only one to leave a final message. Bahamut, through Kurpke, managed to relay information related to Arcane Sniper to Leeha.
* * *
“Kurpke!”
Just as Kurpke was about to convey a message to Leeha, Zelreja shouted while closing the distance.
Her loud voice filled Bahamut’s lair, making even Leeha flinch, but Kurpke looked at her without flinching.
“What is it, Zelreja?”
“Did Lord really leave a message for a human like this? Despite Bailephus being there! With his partner being there! To Blaugrunn’s… partner? Such a weakling?”
Kurpke nodded as he watched the Steel Dragon breathe heavily with pent-up rage.
Zelreja looked back and forth between Blaugrunn and Leeha with a face full of incomprehension.
“Blaugrunn!”
“Yes, yes?”
“Do you really—truly believe in your partner, this human…? Does he possess such power? You of all know best!”
“Well, um…”
Even Blaugrunn, usually fearless, was immobilized by her voice. Kurpke did not intervene.
And Leeha understood why Kurpke allowed Zelreja to act as she did.
“This is information that the Lord exchanged his life for! I can’t entrust it to a human without potential.”
Zelreja wasn’t angry; she was saddened.
Though often irritable, she had been a dragon who followed Bahamut the best. Even if she disliked educating Blaugrunn, she had executed Bahamut’s orders without hesitation.
Leeha saw Blaugrunn’s once-conflicted expression gradually stabilize.
At a glance, it resembled a rigidly hardening face, but what Blaugrunn held in his eyes was not anger.
“Yes. Ha Leeha-nim indeed holds such power.”
The confidence infused calmness, synonymous with trust.
“What?”
Blaugrunn met Leeha’s gaze before looking back at Zelreja.
“I understand why you, who respects the Lord’s judgment above all, ask such questions. So, I hope you trust us. Ha Leeha-nim has… the skills Bahamut entrusted with confidence.”
“Hmm—”
“Zelreja, you already know this, don’t you? Although I’m also saddened… now that the Lord has passed, and since he left the information with Ha Leeha-nim, we can’t just keep grieving forever.”
Blaugrunn spoke calmly and a bit slowly. Leeha saw his past, or perhaps it was his future.
Blaugrunn was no longer a juvenile dragon but was akin to his adult dragon self, calm, gentle, and scholarly, wearing a bright smile on his long-haired youthful face.
‘If he were only a bit taller—Hm, he’s practically the same as back then, truly adult-class—’
“You!”
“Yes, yes?”
Zelreja shouted as she looked at Leeha, making him flinch and grip Black Bass tightly.
“Don’t answer so absentmindedly! Because I trust the Lord, and because the Lord chose this human, I’ll let it go for now. But… if you disappoint me—or do not meet the Lord’s expectations—you better be prepared. Even if you are Blaugrunn’s partner, I won’t forgive you.”
Zelreja exhaled sharply through her nose. Leeha watched her with a nod.
With Blaugrunn taking such a stance, Leeha felt no need to get angry.
Moreover, even as a human, the fact that the long and sharp dragon tail peeked from her behind was evidence enough.
Arguing with an overly excited being who couldn’t maintain their polymorph was pointless.
In this moment, Leeha exchanged a glance with Blaugrunn, both of them nodding.
“Of course. Even if I must risk my life… I will fulfill the mission the Lord entrusted to me.”
Zelreja finally began to steady her breathing. As she turned towards Bailephus, Leeha heard a voice in his mind.
—Even though she says that, she will be the first to come if you ask for help.
—Yeah, yeah. I know. Despite her personality, she’s very loyal.
—I thought she’d be angrier. That’s a relief, isn’t it?
—What, Blaugrunn? Underestimating me? Although I haven’t been in society for long, I’ve seen my fair share!
—Huh? A fair share?
Leeha and Blaugrunn laughed simultaneously. Of course, it was a silent laugh to avoid provoking Zelreja.
In Bahamut’s lair, where the atmosphere was steeped in gloom due to the gathering of Metal Dragons over Bahamut’s death, a ray of hope was beginning to grow.
“Then, the Lord’s message…”
“Yes.”
Kurpke lightly waved his hand. To avoid any misinterpretation, he used the same messaging magic that Bahamut had once used on him, directly on Leeha.
Finally, Bahamut’s voice began to resonate within Leeha’s mind.
“Ah…”
The message was brief. Yet, it was profound.
『Kurpke, Blaugrunn has a partner. It’s Ha Leeha.』
『I know as well, hyungnim.』
『Relay this to the child. Arcane Sniper is… currently being consumed. The poor child doesn’t seem to realize he is being consumed. When the consumption ends, he will go berserk… Zamiel is likely waiting for this opportunity.』
Bahamut’s voice was extremely rough. It was completely different from the playful old man’s voice that one usually heard. Leeha felt his heart pounding somehow.
『Should I convey it exactly as is? Though I don’t understand it at all… Will he understand it?』
『He will understand. Huh, huh… I’m sorry.』
『There’s nothing to apologize for, hyungnim. If anything, we are the ones who should feel sorry.』
How must Kurpke have felt, having to listen to Bahamut continue with labored breathing and a hoarse voice?
Even the voice of the Ancient Copper Dragon, who now forewent the title of ‘Lord’ and called Bahamut ‘hyungnim,’ was trembling with unease.
Bahamut’s breaths were becoming gradually more infrequent.
『Leaving my burden behind…』
『Rest in peace, and return to tranquility, hyungnim. I will… soon follow.』
『Kek, you still have 5,000 more years of work to do… uh!』
『Hyungnim, hyungnim! Hyungnim!』
With Kurpke’s cry, the opportunity for Leeha to hear Bahamut’s voice vanished.
Leeha envisioned Bahamut’s death, picturing the solitary platinum dragon, with its dragon heart destroyed by Arcane Bullet, lying desolate.
Upon rising from the Middle Earth connection device, Leeha could see the tear streaks on his own face.
* * *
Thinking back to that time made the tip of Leeha’s nose tingle, and he tapped his cheek lightly.
‘Being consumed must be Zamiel’s doing. Moreover, it means Kyle doesn’t know about it.’
Bahamut would have realized it immediately upon being struck by Arcane Bullet. What was Kyle’s current state?
Even the mention of the previously unfamiliar name ‘Zamiel’ indicated the gravity of the situation.
It was one of the concerns Leeha had since leaving Saur Land.
A being who became Arcane Sniper even in the fetal stage.
It must have been something none of the previous Arcane Sniper ever experienced.
Moreover, wasn’t Kyle’s original self, his individuality, practically in a state of suspended cognition because of Kaztor?
In the moment of breaking Kaztor’s curse, did Zamiel’s soul, which had influenced Kyle for a long time, fully merge into him?
‘Does that mean they are becoming one? Then, once the process is complete, will it no longer be Kyle, nor Zamiel, but something else entirely?’
And when Arcane Bullet struck his body, did Bahamut perhaps engage in some form of conversation with Zamiel or perceive some unique presence?
“Hmm… I might not know the precise mechanism, but it probably feels something like this.”
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One unfortunate aspect was that Leeha had not fully realized as much as Bahamut had expected.
“So, what should I do? Is this about finding a way to undo that consumption?”
Leeha’s thoughts were constantly caught up in that direction. He felt a sense of apprehension about Alexander disclosing information about Kyle on the broadcast and preparing to assassinate him, which was in the same context.
Finding a way to save Kyle while also dealing with Zamiel.
In some sense, attempting to handle two completely opposing tasks simultaneously led to a continuous interruption in his stream of thought.
“Ah, my head hurts. I knew I didn’t have much time, but there’s no immediate solution. Sigh…”
Feeling somehow stifled, Leeha left his office. He hoped that taking a short walk outside the inner city, where the energy was bustling, might lift his spirits.
‘I’ve not heard from Blaugrunn either.’
Leeha wanted to inquire Blaugrunn about the situation of the metal dragons, but Blaugrunn was not in a stable condition either.
Ever since Bahamut went to his eternal rest, all the metal dragons, including Kurpke and Zelreja, had ceased their activities and secluded themselves in their lairs.
– I’m not feeling well. I’m sorry.
– Well, alright. Stay strong, and contact me when you’re feeling better.
– Yes, Ha Leeha…
Even when Leeha tried to visit, he only told him not to come because he wasn’t feeling well, completely cutting off any contact with the outside.
‘Still, Alexander seems to be meeting Bailephus. Is it somewhat different over there?’
Perhaps the awe of the ‘oldest dragon’ without Bahamut was making itself evident in such places.
Simply the fact that they could move without Bahamut being present… perhaps…
‘Is this heralding the birth of the next Platinum Dragon?’
Bailephus becoming Bahamut? Already ranked number one, and if he used the 〈Fusion〉 skill, he could withstand even Tiamat’s breath.
Did Bahamut not himself tank Tiamat’s breath? Did he not inflict serious injuries on Bluebeard?
What if all that power was concentrated in just one person?
“Crazy. Does that even make sense?”
“Oh, oh, oh! It’s a cheat! A cheat character!”
“Yeah, it’s literally a cheat character—huh?”
As Leeha walked out onto the street outside the fortress, he suddenly heard voices. What he had been thinking was that Alexander might become a cheat character, so why would others empathize with that thought?
Leeha, feeling a sudden chill, looked around.
The previously noisy atmosphere had vanished. What faced Leeha now were hundreds of eyes focused solely on him.
“Cheat character!”
“It’s Ha Leeha! It’s Ha Leeha, right?”
Alexander as a cheat character? At least, the users gathered here would not think that.
Who else is the real cheat character?
Who achieved the feat of being the number one in accumulated damage in the Tiamat battle?
Who owns the ‘glitch-like skill’ broadcast to the whole world?
“Wow! They said we could see him in Gaza City, and it’s true!”
“Please sign! Ha Leeha! Just one slot for a friend request! Friend point!”
“What was that skill you used then? Like a white beam! Was slicing the sky like a cake the skill of the 〈White Reaper〉?”
“You remember me, right? Back then! I was the twelfth mage behind Ram Hwajung! I gave you mana! You remember, right!?”
“Kyaa! It’s Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha! Please accept this! It’s a handkerchief with my heart!”
“I also have cookies I baked! It comes with an agility buff—take this, don’t shove, you idiot!”
“Wait, everyone! Please—ahhh!”
Leeha found himself in a situation where he could barely stand due to the surging crowd.
But it wasn’t just Leeha. The users were bustling about, pushing and shoving in their attempts to get even a step closer to him.
Even a celebrity walking through Myeong-dong without bodyguards wouldn’t face an ‘assault’ like this.
“How on earth did you become the top damage dealer?”
“Is there a way to hit Tiamat? Some enhancement buff?”
“There’s a rumor that Tiamat’s damage reward is about to be released. Did you hear anything about who might distribute the reward and what it could be?”
As he was pushed by the users, Leeha stepped back, retreating to the inner area. There were many questions he couldn’t answer even if he knew, and some he didn’t know at all.
The ranking of total damage against Tiamat.
There were numerous speculative posts online, yet even Alexander, who appeared on broadcasts, couldn’t easily answer this.
Had there been no mention at all, it might have been understandable, but hadn’t the system alarm clearly shown it? Therefore, a legitimate reward should undoubtedly exist.
However, the slaying of Tiamat had never been issued as a quest. No individual or faction had awarded it.
Who would be responsible for this?
The most logical assumption was that the “Sacred Alliance” was likely to oversee it. That speculation, which had spread like a rumor, was something Leeha had already heard.
With his feet getting trodden and recognized as PK(indicating Player Kill), Leeha had no energy left to respond.
“Everyone, please don’t push! I am now going to check that—I’m off to the New Continent!”
“Ooooh!”
As Leeha’s voice resonated, the users’ actions finally calmed down.
Had someone else said it, they might have sneered, asking what they were planning to do on the New Continent. However, at least the users gathered in Gaza City, who had become his fans, quickly speculated many things from just those words.
“Someone like Ha Leeha can have a showdown with Ewin!”
“When you find out—post an announcement!”
“When! When will you inform us?”
As they pressed him as if he were an administrator of Middle Earth, Leeha pondered for a moment.
As long as he was there, wouldn’t they always flock to Gaza City?
‘And lately… I heard the expenses were too high.’
Just buying and using the scrolls needed to come and go. Even buying just one dish in a tavern within Gaza City.
All of it contributed to the income of Gaza City.
If so?
“Ahem! I can’t say when you’ll find out, but I will post notifications as soon as I do. Those of you interested, please check back often.”
Couldn’t he just keep them tethered there?
“As expected, it’s Ha Leeha.”
“That’s right! Only someone who can handle Ewin can make this work. If we went, it wouldn’t hold any water.”
“Wow… but what might actually be the reward? They should definitely acknowledge the credit for killing the Chimera too, right?”
The users marveled at Leeha’s consideration.
While they murmured, unaware of his shrewd business mindset(?), Leeha tried to compose himself as stylishly as possible and pulled out a crystal ball.
“Then, register ‘Gaza City’ in your crystal balls!”
The ten seconds it took to teleport to the central part of the New Continent felt like the longest ten seconds in the world to Leeha.
He faced the hundreds of eyes fixed on him.
* * *
“Raise it higher! Fortify the defense! You didn’t think the Chimera couldn’t break through that much, did you!? Harhey! Stop procrastinating and strengthen the Paleos!”
“Kehihi, hihi, she’s a terrifying female!”
“Hey, members of Byulcho! Stop fooling around! Especially you, Hyein—how do you have time to rest? You should use Space Grab!”
“My mana… my mana’s depleted…”
“Just put on the M-Tic set I lent you! Quickly, quickly!”
“Oh… oh?! Ha Leeha!”
Hyein, looking like he was about to burst into tears, received the clothes from Ram Hwayeon and spotted Leeha.
Until now, Ram Hwayeon had been orchestrating everything, deploying all efforts including the Paleos, but her face relaxed instantly.
“Leeha!”
“Hwayeon-ah! Woah, what’s all this chaos?”
“It’s nothing much. I had to squeeze a bit out of the ‘Sacred Alliance’s’ budget. I thought we might need some defensive towers, even if they’re not a full barrier.”
Near the corrupted World Tree forest, several large stone towers were being erected. Leading the Paleos, Ram Hwayeon was displaying abilities superior to any male counterpart.
“The expression you had just a moment ago seems different, though?”
“What? What do you mean?”
“Hmm, I saw that video where Leeha was shooting at Tiamat. I clearly heard him call you ‘Hwayeon-ah’. At first, I thought it was a slip in haste, but… you just said it again.”
Hyein alternated his gaze between Leeha and Ram Hwayeon. Leeha, feeling unnecessarily embarrassed, avoided Hyein’s stare, and Ram Hwayeon’s face was flushed red.
Like two people caught doing something wrong, they appeared restless, and Hyein nodded knowingly.
“Both of you are competent, but bad at lying. Heehee! Ram Hwayeon! I’m going to take a break to recover some MP~”
“H-Hyein, you can’t rest—”
“Should I spill the beans then? About who and who are, you know, close~?”
Ram Hwayeon attempted to approach Hyein, who was humming a tune, but she couldn’t take any action.
“What do you mean! There’s nothing between—”
“Oh dear, why are you so defensive? Our relationship is like a sparkling cider~”
Despite his feigned indignation, he couldn’t overcome Hyein’s playful mischief.
Leeha found himself chuckling at Hyein’s remark all over again.
“Wow, compared to before, Hyein feels like a completely different person.”
“Hehe, what do you mean by that?”
“Oh, nothing.”
The former guild master of Byulcho, who had troubled Kijung in the past, was a Sage. Deceived by Sasuke under Chiyou’s command, he committed grave mistakes driven by greed.
What drove that intense struggle and desperation then?
‘That’s not what’s important—the present is.’
Like a scholar who blended a slight hint of mischief within his serious demeanor.
Hyein, perhaps sharing similar thoughts with Leeha, flashed a shy smile.
“Oh, human Leeha!”
“Leeha, Leeha!”
“Ha, it’s been a while. Everyone. You all worked very hard during the last battle.”
As Leeha, Hyein, and Ram Hwayeon created an animated atmosphere, the eyes of the surrounding Paleos focused on them.
The gorilla-like Paleos, always indispensable for any work, along with the boars, cows, and red goats, all turned their gaze towards Leeha.
Under their stare, Leeha felt somewhat awkward. He soon realized why they were unusually sparkling and smiling warmly.
“In the name of the guardian Aibex, we offer our gratitude to you.”
“We are the same. Hudid instructed us to surely show respect to Ha Leeha.”
“Why, why are you doing this, everyone?”
The red goat and black crane-like Paleos first bowed their heads toward Leeha.
Their unfamiliar tone, so different from their usual rough speech, left Leeha flustered. Then, an ugly monkey approached him, snickering.
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“Hehehe, thank you too! I never expected to see such a battle. We really thought we were all going to die! Right, Koba?”
“Indeed… The dragon Tiamat was something beyond our power to handle. Not even deploying all my skills could have matched it.”
“Heigh-ho! Koba, talking like that? It’s the first time I’m hearing it!”
“It’s neither shameful nor embarrassing to have respect for a human who vanquished Tiamat. It’s rather a natural thing for a proud warrior to do, Harhei.”
“Chuckle, you’re right! You’re absolutely right!”
The mythical creature of the Gorilla Paleos, Harhei, and the mythical creature of the bonobo Paleos, Koba, bowed their heads to Leeha.
They neither shouted nor cheered but simply bowed their heads as a gesture of respect to a formidable warrior.
As soon as those two mythical creaturess bowed, all the Paleos working on building the stone tower bowed their heads to Leeha as well.
“Everyone?! This—oh, there’s no need for this. I mean—well, anyhow—.”
I didn’t kill Tiamat.
Leeha responded to their gratitude with an awkward voice. Should he really bother explaining that he wasn’t the one who killed it?
‘Ugh, well. Since Lark probably has close to zero affinity with the Paleos… I suppose I should pass on the message.’
Was Leeha being recognized because these Paleos remembered the moment Lark was ‘killed’?
Or perhaps, not having seen Lark use his skills, they attributed the grand and impactful final strike to Leeha?
Leeha couldn’t be entirely certain of the reason but bowed back in acknowledgment towards the Paleos.
Just a few steps away from Leeha, Hyein and Ram Hwayeon found the scene quite chilling as well.
It was evident how startled Ram Hwayeon was since she didn’t even yell “Get back to work!” at them.
The Paleos of the New Continent were indeed creatures with profound pride.
“If they intended to be cooperative like this from the start… I almost lost my voice giving out work instructions.”
“Hahaha. Looks like you’ll have to play the foreman around here for a while, Ha Leeha.”
Though Hyein said it jokingly, the users, caught amid the bowing Paleos, wholeheartedly agreed with him.
“Wow… I’ve never witnessed anything like this before. So, Paleos can behave this way.”
“Ha Leeha should take the opportunity to act a bit more arrogant this time.”
“Giggle, he’s certainly being himself, isn’t he?”
Bobae, Jin Gonggong, Biyemi, and other special forces personnel were mixed with the Paleos, coerced into labor together.
It was only after Leeha received gratitude from the Paleos that the atmosphere gradually returned to normal.
Hyein, having found a slight weakness in Ram Hwayeon, gathered all the special forces together for a break.
With Ram Hwayeon unable to object, users flocked joyfully around Leeha.
Users like Biyemi, Jin Gonggong, and Tale were curious about Leeha’s skills, newly acquired achievements, or recent accomplishments, and initiated conversations.
What drew Leeha’s interest more than their twinkling eyes was Bobae’s demeanor.
“Bobae, did something good happen? Did Kijung buy you something?”
“Huh? Ehehe, do I look like I’m in a good mood?”
“Yes. You’re just smiling all the time.”
Bobae appeared more cheerful and her voice brighter than ever. It had been so long since Leeha had seen this side of Bobae that he couldn’t quite recall the last time.
And there was certainly only one reason for Bobae’s good mood.
“Of course I’m happy! Because—”
“Because I’ve come. Leeha, it’s been a while since I’ve seen your face.”
“Oh, oh? N-Nara?”
Bobae’s best friend, Shin Nara, was also there, sweating alongside her. She had neatly folded her Sacred Order’s cloak to avoid any interference with her labor, tirelessly working among the Paleos to build defense towers.
“That girl, honestly! Always worrying people for nothing. Do you know why she didn’t contact you?”
“Everything happens for a reason! You think you’d be different, Bobae?”
Bobae was beside herself with laughter and was playing pranks because she hadn’t been able to spend time with Shin Nara in quite some time, and Shin Nara was just as receptive to it.
Leeha was somewhat taken aback, encountering the cheerful Shin Nara so suddenly.
“What… is it?”
Most importantly, Ram Hwayeon was there as well. In such a situation, Leeha found himself unable to avoid considering Ram Hwayeon’s perspective, though surprisingly, she appeared indifferent.
The way Ram Hwayeon responded was to be expected to some extent.
“Anyway! The reason Nara didn’t contact us was because of Lark! That man told her not to! He was saying misleading our allies would mislead our enemies too! Onyx might develop strange suspicions if everyone behaved unaffected! That man has strange ways! Even had a bizarre mind battle with AI!”
“But honestly, he’s not that bad.”
“Always busy taking care of her boyfriend, it seems!”
No one knew for sure when Shin Nara had arrived there. Yet Bobae had likely spread these stories to prevent any misunderstandings about Shin Nara since her arrival.
The reason she hadn’t made contact thus far and the inevitability of being with Lark. Even the fact that she and Lark had become romantically involved.
“Oh… uh?”
The most surprised was Leeha. He inadvertently glanced at Ram Hwayeon, who simply shrugged.
What on earth had unfolded here?
“So it’s come to this. Shin Nara from the Sacred Order and the Rainbow Knight of the Virtue Knights have become a couple.”
Ram Hwayeon explained. It was precisely for this reason—since Shin Nara and Leeha had met—that there was no evident worry.
It was the birth of another official couple.
* * *
Leeha remained dazed for a moment, unable to utter a word. Even he couldn’t grasp the complex emotion blooming within his heart.
Did he like Shin Nara? No, even Leeha himself felt that wasn’t it.
The excitement he felt looking at Ram Hwayeon was distinctly different from the emotions provoked by looking at Shin Nara.
‘Even when she first saw me in a wheelchair…’
Leeha reflected on that time. When Shin Nara, who reached out for a handshake upon first meeting him, did so without concern for his wheelchair-bound state.
Wouldn’t Shin Nara be the best example of someone who judges purely by the substance of one’s character rather than their appearance?
As Leeha briefly contemplated Shin Nara’s personality, he realized he could understand now.
Specifically, he knew quite well the reasons she would like Lark—one of the first to sacrifice for the greater good, despite his cantankerous and irritable nature.
“Congratulations, Nara.”
“Why congratulate me… it’s embarrassing.”
Seeing Shin Nara accept Leeha’s congratulations with a refreshing smile also left him with a strangely liberated feeling.
His feelings toward Shin Nara closely resembled those for a respected friend.
And now, she was with Lark. Leeha thought that, if it were before their fight with Tiamat, he might have been more carried away by emotions. But now?
“And thank you, by the way, for the Tiamat battle.”
In a way, Leeha thought that perhaps he knew more about Lark than anyone besides Shin Nara.
“Thank you? No, rather I was relieved because it ended quickly.”
“By the way, is Lark okay?”
Shin Nara nodded with a smile, but the melancholy lingering around her lips was unavoidable.
“Hmm? What do you mean by that? Oh, because of the death penalty? Maybe he feels sorrowful not being able to log in yet?”
Bobae mumbled to herself as if asking Nara. Shin Nara didn’t particularly respond, and Leeha just smiled.
Shin Nara probably didn’t want to recall or talk about what had happened at that time.
Leeha thought it was because she genuinely shared in Lark’s suffering.
‘Above all… it was too horrifying.’
How long would the impact of seeing his skin completely melted last? What level was Lark’s assimilation rate?
Could a person possibly endure that kind of pain?
Even Kijung, who was once decapitated by Igor, was disoriented for days from the mental shock.
However, compared to being beheaded, Lark had undergone ‘true torture’, Leeha thought.
Those previous incidents with the paleo were one thing, but hoping that he had developed resistance to torture might be too much.
Could experiencing it once make it easier to go through a second time? Leeha shook his head at such thoughts.
Of course not. The mental shock would be tremendous.
“By the way, what sort of reward might there be? Ha Leeha-do you know anything?”
“Hehehe, probably Lark will know once he logs in.”
Biyemi, brimming with confidence and hinting that he knew something, replied instead of Leeha, piquing even his interest, although he hadn’t cared much about the reward.
“Huh? Biyemi, do you know something about Lark?”
“Isn’t it obvious why the Tiamat reward hasn’t appeared? Hehe, it’s because the person who actually killed Tiamat, the ‘Dragon Slayer’ Lark, is absent from this world.”
“Oh, that makes sense.”
“Hehe, no, it’s not about making sense; it’s the truth.”
Biyemi speculated that the reason the “Sacred Alliance” didn’t make the first move was that the ‘protagonist’ of the Tiamat battle wasn’t present.
Leeha, along with other users, nodded. Besides, wasn’t Lark deeply connected to Ewin, the General Commander of the “Sacred Alliance”?
A significant number of NPCs, unaware of Lark’s ‘death,’ would treat him the same once he logged in, and that’s when the proper rewards would begin.
“And around that time, a new quest line will probably emerge.”
“What quest line? Oh, right. Now that I think about it, something else will progress once Kijung is confirmed as C9—.”
“No, no. Ha Leeha, you’re not quite catching on, are you?”
Biyemi gave Leeha a knowing wink. However, Leeha didn’t grasp Biyemi’s signal at all.
Turning his back, Biyemi, whom Leeha was observing in confusion, had another surprise up his sleeve.
“Huh? What’s that—?”
“S-U-R-P-R-I-S-E!”
“Aahhhh!”
“What the-!”
“What’s happening!”
“Oh, damn, that scared me!”
From Biyemi’s cover, Petyr emerged.
Leeha, as well as the members of Byulcho, were ready to jump into combat due to the sudden appearance.
“Bwahahahaha!”
“Kakakaka!”
Successfully achieving his surprise entrance, Petyr was high-fiving Biyemi. It was only after calming his startled heart that Leeha could finally see Petyr.
TL’s Corner:
So Biyemi’s revenge is not that important I guess?
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With a grin that always made him appear as if he was mad, an outfit resembling a clown, and claws with durability and sharpness beyond most weapons, the miyaw seemed the same as usual.
However, there was one difference— the crescent moon shape and tent-like tattoo on his chest.
While other users couldn’t discern its meaning, Leeha immediately recognized the simply drawn tent.
“Midnight Circus… no way!”
He quickly understood why such a previously unseen pattern was engraved on his body.
“Buhihihit!”
“Kikit, it seems Petyr saw Pyrot-Cocri waking up.”
Biyemi speculated that since Pyrot-Cocri had awoken, the quests from the “Sacred Alliance” would head in that direction.
“What!?”
“You saw that? You were there at that time— you mean?”
“Biyemi! Why didn’t you mention this earlier—”
“Kikit, I wanted Ha Leeha to be present when telling this story. Petyr really hates repeating himself, you know.”
Biyemi attempted to trip Petyr’s leg, but without even looking at Biyemi’s movements, Petyr avoided it effortlessly.
“Did you summon Petyr as soon as I arrived?”
“Of course. Petyr wished to express his thanks to Ha Leeha.”
“Thanks? To me? Why?”
As soon as Leeha arrived, Biyemi must have called Petyr. This wasn’t just Biyemi’s idea; it was something Petyr had wanted too.
But why? Even Leeha himself didn’t understand. Petyr tapped the tattoo on his chest.
“Buhihihit… Thanks to that, hunting the former leader was very easy.”
He witnessed Chiyou awaken Pyrot-Cocri. And at that moment, he killed the former leader of the Midnight Circus.
“If you killed the former leader— then that pattern on your chest must be… ”
“Buhihihit!”
In other words, this meant he had become the leader of the largest, strongest, and most lethal assassin group in Middle Earth at the current time—the first “user” to lead a group with a significant reputation in Middle Earth.
“So you’ve finally become the leader of the Midnight Circus?!”
“Buhihihit… If I were to cut off everyone’s head here, I might even target the nobles of Fibiel, don’t you think?”
With crescent-shaped eyes, Petyr’s voice carried significant weight.
Although all nations of the old continent were cooperating, it was merely on the “surface”.
In Minis, there were still many who wanted to keep Fibiel’s forces in check, and most of them used the “Midnight Circus” to execute their plans.
Sending gifts to high-ranking officials or nobles in Minis to commemorate the inauguration of the new leader could become quite an event.
Moreover, an organization like the Midnight Circus could wield influence not only within Fibiel but also across the Ezwen Theocracy and the “Sacred Alliance” as a whole.
Therefore, Petyr’s words didn’t sound like a joke even to Ram Hwayeon, who was in the company of the Midnight Circus.
“Haha, what are you saying, Petyr? Your jokes are a bit too much. You don’t actually wish to die, do you?”
Leeha smiled, jokingly patting Petyr on the shoulder.
In a tense situation, Leeha’s actions caught everyone off guard.
However, it was Petyr who appeared the most bewildered by Leeha’s unexpected gesture.
“Huh? Buhihit!? Wish to die? Me? Uhahahah!”
Petyr laughed, looking at Leeha.
Leeha gazed at him without any hint of tension.
“It wouldn’t be easy, but I guess it wouldn’t be too hard either. Haha! I thought Petyr was a bit unhinged, but your sense of humor is quite good. Ah, now I see why Biyemi keeps trying to contact Petyr.”
What Leeha expressed was a form of confidence.
Can Petyr kill me? Me?
Leeha had an unwavering belief that he would not die at the hands of Petyr, which allowed him to take Petyr’s words as a joke.
Of course, there were other users who weren’t to be underestimated either.
Bobae and Shin Nara were also strong enough to fight him. But if it was an ambush? He was not a martial artist or swordsman, but an assassin.
An assassin so meticulous that he could disguise himself with others’ “clothing items.”
There was the possibility of him popping up in the street and stabbing me from behind.
Because Petyr was the strongest figure in Middle Earth who could make that possibility a reality, no one could easily deal with him.
Leeha’s words might have sounded like a taunt to Petyr.
Thus, Biyemi, who acted as a bridge between Leeha and Petyr, could not help but feel a bit tense.
“Ki, kikik… Don’t move recklessly, Petyr!”
Biyemi warned quietly.
“Buhihi! Isn’t it unreasonable to think I won’t move after hearing that?!”
Petyr replied with a laugh.
“Kikik! But you’d think it’s best not to move.”
Petyr answered Biyemi’s quiet warning with a smile. However, the expression on the Miyaw’s face, painted like a clown, held more than just laughter.
Only Biyemi could read the fiery madness in Petyr’s twisted eyes.
Leeha tilted his head, listening to their conversation.
“Hmm? What is it?” he asked.
“No, kikik. Anyway, you seem quite brave? It would be tough to handle Petyr if he got truly mad, wouldn’t it? Kikik.”
“Yes, it’s difficult, but… since I can see you. An assassin is scary when they can’t be seen.”
Biyemi nodded as if agreeing. Petyr, unable to fully understand Leeha’s words, asked further.
“Uh, huh? Buhihihit! Do you mean to say you can see me?”
“Well, yes. That’s what I’m saying.”
Leeha looked back at Petyr. There wasn’t a trace of tension in his eyes. It was not simply because he underestimated Petyr.
In essence, it was a matter of compatibility.
Leeha possessed a feature that nullified any type of stealth—the “Distorted Vision!”
Nothing could escape it.
From the moment Petyr emerged from Biyemi’s backside, Leeha had already seen him.
From Leeha’s perspective, Petyr was merely a ‘visible assassin’.
If that was the case? For a ranged attacker, he was just a stationary target. The outcome was too obvious.
No user present thought Leeha’s confident words were a lie or mere bluff.
The “White Reaper” that had been shot towards Tiamat.
Since its immense power was demonstrated, hardly anyone could gauge the depths of Leeha’s abilities.
“Indeed, there’s nothing to say but ‘Ha Leeha is Ha Leeha’. Kikik.”
“Buhihihihit! That’s right! He is the real deal.”
Petyr quickly accepted Biyemi’s words uttered like a sigh.
Even though he had some genuine intent, he couldn’t afford to turn Leeha into an enemy or instantly make the others in Byulcho his enemies.
The users were amazed again by Miyaw’s physical ability to clap with his feet three times during a short leap, but the spectacle ended there.
With Leeha’s question, Petyr’s expression changed once more.
“So… what happened? What does it mean that it became easier to kill the leader because of me?”
Petyr began to explain frantically.
***
At the moment Bahamut was just struck by the Arcane Bullet, right then, Petyr was at the northernmost point of Shazrashian.
He held holy water stained with the blood of Ahlo, acquired from Kijung with just two drops, intending to kill the undead former Ringmaster.
“Buheehee! Even as an undead, you leave no trace, do you?”
Petyr inspected the ground.
Amidst the snow-covered terrain, numerous monster corpses could be seen, but no trace of humans was present.
Though quite a few giant users had begun hunting at the northernmost point of Shazrashian, none cleaned up as meticulously as this.
One of the standout traits of an assassin was not leaving any traces!
“If it were the usual Ringmaster, he would never have done this. The best way to leave no trace is to blend it with the surroundings… Buhee!”
Ironically, because there were no traces, Petyr was able to track them easily.
Even as he pursued NPCs who had retained their habits despite becoming undead, Petyr felt assured.
Their skills remained intact.
However, a lack of flexibility and adaptability in their thinking indicated that there were gaps for Petyr to exploit.
Yet, finding the next trace in a place where all traces vanished was no simple task.
While the entire continent was in uproar, he was solely focused on his mission.
Some called Petyr a madman, but he was certainly not insane. He had chosen this place after accurately weighing what he could gain and what he might lose in the Tiamat battle.
“Considering the direction the snowfield corpses lie in and where the heads are pointing, perhaps… north―.”
Bang─────!
“―Bibit!?”
Petyr was startled and leapt up a tree.
Only then did he realize that the gunfire wasn’t too far from his location.
“… Ha Leeha?”
The gunfire brought back unpleasant memories, but Petyr shook his head.
Ha Leeha was the target of the “Midnight Circus”.
He was someone Petyr could find ‘whenever’ he set his mind to it.
At least Petyr, as the current vice-leader of Midnight Circus, knew better than anyone that Ha Leeha wasn’t near.
Yet, the ominous sound of gunfire!
Petyr thought of Luger, Kidd, and other musketeers, yet shook his head again.
There was no way long-range dealers would have left the Tiamat battle to roam such places. But did that mean someone was here anyway?
“Buheehee, interesting.”
Petyr briefly twisted his wrists and ankles before jumping from the tree. As soon as his hand touched the snowy ground, Petyr’s figure vanished.
Swimming through the snow-like stealth, he left no footprints behind.
It took Petyr less than ten minutes to reach the spot where the gunfire had been.
There, he saw a massive, ash-colored dragon.
‘Platinum Dragon!’
Though he had never seen one before, he realized immediately.
Through process of elimination, Petyr quickly calculated that the only dragon he hadn’t seen was the platinum one, and his eyes widened in surprise. Yet, as a top-grade assassin, he did not recklessly approach Bahamut’s corpse.
He had noticed the users nearby.
“Quick, melt it!”
“Whining doesn’t help, patience is required. Huuup!”
Flames burst from Pyro’s body. Unlike before, they didn’t soar skyward.
The pillar of fire shot straight and began melting the entrance of the tunnel towards City Pekro.
Chiyou watched the scene, biting her lip.
“Damn Bahamut, damn it! This tracking achievement won’t be easy to navigate.”
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The Achievement obtained by the three individuals simultaneously with the death of Bahamut was anything but favorable.
Chiyou, Igor, and Pyro were well aware that achievements in Middle Earth did not only provide ‘positive effects’, but this particular case was exceptionally severe.
“Kyahaha! It’s great, isn’t it? If the next generation Bahamut recognizes us, won’t that Bahamut come for revenge? We’ll just have to kill that one too! With the items we looted, we could at least break even for all our efforts!”
The feature of being located by the next generation Bahamut.
Petyr immediately grasped the current situation just by overhearing the brief conversation. Although he didn’t know ‘how’ they killed Bahamut, it didn’t matter in the grand scheme of things.
‘Hee hee hee… Assassination methods can exceed a million depending on the target and situation.’
What mattered was the outcome.
Chiyou had used some means to kill Bahamut and must now pay for it. Judging by Chiyou’s expression, the penalty from the Achievement overshadowed the combined value of the looted items from Bahamut.
“Igor~? You haven’t already forgotten what you told Pyro, have you? How we ‘caught’ Bahamut.”
“Ugh… Indeed, using it ‘one more time’ would be too much of a waste.”
“Of course. Unless we can find a way to cancel this option, killing the next Bahamut will result in the same outcome. When a new Bahamut is born, the cycle will continue. Bahamut won’t come alone, and eliminating all the Metal Dragons is practically impossible within the game system. Besides, the penalty from the Achievement isn’t just limited to that.”
Petyr found it somewhat amusing.
For him, Chiyou was a rival, sharing the same Minis origin and the same assassin lineage, though they approached their craft in utterly contrasting styles.
Watching such a rival suffer, it was naturally enjoyable…
‘And there… if my memory serves me right—.’
BOOM─────!
Suddenly, with a loud explosion, an enormous amount of steam gushed from the entrance of the cave. It startled Pyro enough to cancel his skill.
“What… was that? As the external ice melted, the internal ice vaporized automatically?”
“This is perfect. Hurry up. You all follow me, quickly!”
No excuses.
Chiyou, needing to move quickly, immediately started to advance into the cave. Chiyou entered first, followed closely by Pyro.
Igor trailed behind them with three NPCs.
Petyr waited for a moment.
Were there any other unseen eyes?
The assassin, who had long known that Chiyou wasn’t acting alone, continued to wait.
The fact that Bahamut’s carcass hadn’t disappeared yet suggested there were still items to be looted. Even getting hold of one Platinum Dragon scale could lead to acquiring countless assassination missions.
Yet, Petyr remained in his place.
He resisted moving out, choosing instead to quietly organize his thoughts. Even as the looting items remained, he held his ground until the body of Bahamut completely vanished when the time limit expired.
This was a testament to why he continued to rank as the number one assassin. Only when he reached the end of the cave entrance did he dissolve his body’s outline into the darkness.
After all, to a vampire like Chiyou, Igor, and Pyro, and an assassin like Petyr who worked in the dark, the cave’s darkness posed no hindrance.
Including the NPCs, Chiyou’s group consisted of six people, with Petyr making it seven.
Though seven bodies moved within the cave, the only sound heard came from the droplets falling from the stalactites.
* * *
“Kahahah… This level of gloom, I haven’t felt in a long time. The Demon King’s Fragment is indeed extraordinary.”
“Stop boasting. I don’t feel anything at all.”
“What? What’s with you—?”
“Shh! Does it look like there’s time for joking? Kyle! Elizabeth! Keep watch in the front and back! Brown… just follow your family.”
Chiyou, feeling annoyed by the bickering between Igor and Pyro, commanded the NPCs.
They did not particularly oppose Chiyou’s words.
“Watch out for the stones ahead.”
“Yes. I see them too, Liza. Are you feeling okay?”
“I’m fine, dear.”
Brown, having been known as 『Pierce』 before Luger, had no significant problems identifying the terrain in the dark.
Elizabeth nodded in response to Brown’s question.
“It’s been quite a while since we’ve eaten…”
“No matter what, I can’t drink blood. That of humans, at least… I don’t want to become a monster.”
Elizabeth showed a faint smile.
Listening to the specific penalty that only NPC vampires suffered, as opposed to user vampires, Chiyou also momentarily sympathized with them.
‘If Elizabeth dies, Kyle becomes useless. I also have to consider the possibility of Brown committing suicide, which is quite troublesome.’
The likelihood of Arcane Sniper becoming an enemy had drastically increased.
The best option was, indeed, to keep Elizabeth alive.
In fact, Chiyou had employed various strategies to maintain this plan.
Shortly after becoming a vampire, Chiyou even used other vampires to transfer blood to Elizabeth.
However, once Elizabeth had become aware, she strongly refused, and Kyle sided with his mother, telling Chiyou not to use such methods anymore.
‘There’s a limit to animal blood. She must consume human blood…’
Even consuming animal blood had its limits, as Elizabeth could barely ingest a tiny amount before reaching her breaking point.
Her pale appearance was not just because she had become a vampire; Elizabeth’s overall health had actually deteriorated, almost as if she were under a status ailment.
How to persuade a vampire who refused to drink human blood? It had become one of Chiyou’s major concerns lately.
“Hmm?”
Kyle suddenly turned around after glancing at his parents. The eyes of everyone, including Chiyou, were drawn to Kyle.
“Hmm? What’s wrong, son?”
“… No. The wind… something seems off.”
“The wind?”
“Yes. It feels like something is mixed in.”
Kyle gripped his rifle. Just as he was about to aim the muzzle towards the entrance, Igor burst out laughing.
“Kahaha! As expected from Arcane Sniper, he feels the same as me? Yeah, what’s off is the wind. That’s what I wanted to say, Pyro!”
“Shut up, Igor. Say one more word and I’ll kill you.”
Chiyou eventually forced Igor to close his mouth.
Igor growled for a short while, but with his saw-blade sword already broken, he couldn’t resist much.
“So, do you see anything, Kyle?”
“No, it’s not visible. It’s just a feeling.”
“That’s fine. You can react immediately anyway, right? Everyone, let’s keep moving quickly.”
When Kyle nodded, Chiyou immediately ordered them to hurry. It wasn’t solely because of Bahamut’s death that they hurried.
‘Tiamat was reported dead. But Ha Leeha… there’s no way he could already be here, could he?’
Yet, it wouldn’t hurt to be cautious. Above all, Chiyou remembered how close Bahamut and Ha Leeha once were.
They had to hurry. Chiyou and her group picked up speed, navigating the dark cave.
Only after everyone had passed did Petyr sigh heavily.
“Buhihit… Could he truly be someone who can see me?”
At the moment Kyle was about to raise his gun, Petyr had braced himself to use a scroll.
Fortunately, Igor had saved Petyr from misfortune. Petyr followed the others as they advanced. Minutes passed as they delved deeper into the thicker darkness and deeper underground. Eventually, Petyr began to notice a blue light.
The light was reminiscent of the early dawn, not particularly bright, yet in the perpetually dark cave, it appeared exceedingly bright.
Petyr, having fought Pyrot-Cocri’s avatar before, recognized what this meant: an increasing coldness proportional to the growing brightness of the light. And at the end of that light appeared a massive underground city!
“This must be!”
Petyr thought, as he gazed at the castle standing prominently in the center of the city. It was so bizarrely reminiscent of an American animation company’s castle that it seemed grotesque in its strangeness.
A few bats were flying toward it, clutching two humans tightly. Petyr quickly realized that it was Chiyou’s group. He hesitated briefly but decided to follow them straightaway, moving through the shadows, heading toward the castle where Pyrot-Cocri lay dormant.
There was nothing to hinder Petyr’s movements, which paradoxically made him more uneasy.
“Nothing in a city created by the Queen of the Undead…? Bwahaha!”
Who, or what, ruled this city now? Petyr knew that the third Demon King’s Fragment hadn’t awakened yet. However, given that her avatar had already emerged, some degree of activity or mental awareness must be in effect.
It was logical to conclude that this city was already under her control, implying that his movements were being tracked.
“But… bwahaha! This is interesting!!”
The information about the “Third Faction of Chiyou” that Leeha delivered to Biyemi had also reached Petyr.
In essence, the Demon King’s Fragment and Chiyou were no longer aligned. What had brought her here under these conditions?
Petyr hoped that Chiyou intended to eliminate Pyrot-Cocri. If events unfolded accordingly, he could kill Chiyou and return, gaining leverage over many individuals.
With such thoughts swirling in his mind, Petyr ascended Pyrot-Cocri’s castle, carefully employing detection skills to evade counter-tracking as he stealthily tailed his target.
“They’ve split… into two teams!”
Just below the top floor, Petyr sensed a crowd fleeing through a window, while only one continued up the stairs. Was Pyrot-Cocri deploying some tactic, perhaps splitting forces in anticipation of an attack?
A smile crossed Petyr’s lips. This non-standard tactic suggested preparations for battle or an emergency, hinting at possible discord between Pyrot-Cocri and Chiyou. He climbed the stairs silently.
The floors that had once been filled with Pyrot-Cocri’s undead when Leeha, Kidd, and Luger had visited were now empty, though their ominous aura lingered.
Petyr’s pace did not falter. Reaching the top, he leapt onto the ceiling.
Since Chiyou likely possessed significant detection abilities, remaining on the “same floor” was deemed madness.
Moreover, for a first-class assassin like Petyr, a single floor’s thickness was too insubstantial to effectively impede sound discernment.
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“Kee hee hee! Sent by Grandpa Le, you say? You do reek of Bathory, but… sis, aren’t you free from Grandpa Le’s hold?”
“That’s right. Count Le and I were in a sort of partnership. Thanks to his consideration, we ended the vertical relationship and joined hands anew.”
“Now… even ‘below here’? Including the vampires who’ve flown out and the ones mixed with humans?”
At Pyrot-Cocri’s question, Petyr flinched slightly. Fortunately, the question appeared somewhat ambiguous!
“Ah, you knew. Yes, that’s correct. They all work for me. Among them, of course, is The ‘Arcane Sniper’.”
Chiyou, who was unaware of Petyr’s current presence, could only think about the vampires flying out of a window right below the uppermost floor.
“Kee hee hee! The Arcane Sniper, it’s a name I haven’t heard in ages! It’s amusing, truly amusing! Fine. If Grandpa Le asked you to awaken me, you must have something to offer. What do you want?”
“It’s simple. I want you to resurrect a corpse I have… turning it into an undead.”
“An undead―.”
“Of course, it will be an undead that refuses not only orders from Pyrot-Cocri but also disobeys Count Le’s commands… an entity solely bound to me.”
Listening to Chiyou’s request, Petyr pondered for a moment. What was it that she could transform into an undead?
It likely wasn’t the players. An NPC?
The NPC known as ‘Arcane Sniper’ was already alive and wasn’t something to be made undead. While Petyr pondered, Pyrot-Cocri remained silent.
“The purpose?”
“I didn’t think it was necessary to disclose that.”
“Ang? Kee hee! You came inside me and now you reject me?”
“Could you exert force from ‘inside’ without me? From my knowledge, you already failed before….”
“Unni~? Are you trying to play with me?”
“Kee hee hee! Y-yes, indeed.”
The tension between Chiyou and Pyrot-Cocri was suffocating enough to dry out Petyr’s blood just from eavesdropping.
Even in such a precarious situation, both parties only provoked and nudged each other, stopping just before crossing the line.
Petyr was momentarily curious about Chiyou’s intention in driving the situation to an edge but soon had his curiosity quelled.
He also perceived a strange part in Chiyou’s words.
“Could it be… the one Pyrot-Cocri will play with is not me but… Ha Leeha?”
Pyrot-Cocri’s voice vanished completely then.
‘Indeed. That Ha Leeha’s dealing with Pyrot-Cocri’s projection is a top-secret even among Ezwen and the ‹Sacred Alliance›!’
It was astounding that Chiyou had entirely grasped that fact, and her skill in cornering the conversation was also praiseworthy.
No matter how much of the Demon King’s Fragment one was, or if one were Pyrot-Cocri, they could not outmaneuver Bluebeard in terms of cunning and trickery.
Hence, Chiyou saw them merely as a delectable prey. She incited Pyrot-Cocri’s wrath to redirect it towards a ‘different person’ rather than herself, precisely onto a user whom she utterly loathed.
“Are you against Ha Leeha oppa?”
“Yes, the reason Count Le sent me here is entirely… related to that.”
“Kee hee hee hee! So Grandpa Le was taken too? Kee hee, I should have seen that expression of his!”
Chiyou was no longer viewed as ‘sister’.
When the mischief returned to Pyrot-Cocri’s voice, Chiyou finally played her card.
“The one I aim to resurrect is merely a humble Dark Elf. Though it holds no power in itself, it’s necessary for…”
Petyr recalled hearing Chiyou’s voice in such a tone before. He could envision her expression without seeing it.
A serene dancer, smiling with an exceedingly gentle countenance, was gazing at Pyrot-Cocri—all going according to her plans.
In an infinitely humble posture, with gestures that worked solely for the target.
『You will be able to completely remove Ha Leeha.』
* * *
For a very brief moment, silence fell.
Petyr pressed himself as close to the ceiling as possible, trying to listen, but all he could hear was Chiyou’s breathing.
‘Heh, heh heh, someone’s nervous!’
Even if she could keep her voice calm, controlling her breathing was nearly impossible. Petyr could guess why Chiyou’s breathing was uneasy.
Pyrot-Cocri must not have easily fallen into Chiyou’s trap.
『Hmmm, but that’s a bit of an arrogant statement.』
『Pardon? What do you mean by that?』
『As if I… and Grandpa Le and Ghibrid oppa don’t have the power to kill Ha Leeha?』
Pyrot-Cocri’s voice came directly.
Petyr barely suppressed a smile, imagining Chiyou’s facial expression. However, the smile vanished as Pyrot-Cocri continued speaking.
『It’s not that―.』
『Well, watching your exploits could be nice, but it would be a mistake to underestimate us, those who are ‘all awakened’. Heh heh heh! Regardless of what you’re thinking.』
『Of course. The fact that the moment the three of you gather, you’ll unleash more than the power of three, is evident at a glance.』
『Unni, you’re quite intriguing, aren’t you? Enough of a personality to annoy Grandpa Le, aren’t you? Heh heh! Fine! Then wake me up.』
Despite having doubts about Chiyou’s true intentions, Pyrot-Cocri eventually accepted the deal with Chiyou.
Click… click…
Petyr could hear the sound of Chiyou’s shoes.
The moment the footsteps stopped, a crimson light erupted, reaching even the lower floor where Petyr was.
───────────────!
Simultaneously, a very high-frequency noise resonated throughout the entire Peklo City.
* * *
A sharp “zzz” sound resonated to the extent that even Petyr had to frown and cover his ears.
Its significance was all too clear.
Even amidst the noise, Petyr tried to eliminate as much interference as possible to focus on the conversation of those on the upper floor.
『The dark elf to be resurrected―.』
『No, wait. There’s no advantage in staying here. I will handle that by meeting Grandpa Le directly.』
『Understood. Then, how will the transfer be… ?』
Chiyou’s voice wavered for a moment but soon regained composure. Petyr thought she seemed reluctant to go to Bluebeard’s side.
『Heh heh heh! Just head to Ghibrid oppa’s house! Enter through the “Abyssal Maw”.』
『Is it safe for us to go in?』
『Of course! Oh, before that—there’s something to gather first!』
『Something to gather?』
『The fragments of my power… right here.』
Pyrot-Cocri’s voice altered slightly.
It was enough for Petyr to notice.
Specifically, it wasn’t her voice—her tone, her atmosphere, had changed.
It wasn’t hard for Petyr to perceive it.
The moment the high-frequency noise completely subsided, the entire Peklo City began to tremble.
『Wha-what are you doing—if you dare threaten me, Arcane Sniper will―.』
『”Whaaat~? Kikikih! Don’t worry!”』
Petyr felt alarmed.
Something was about to happen soon. How should he react to the unfolding events?
Where could he flee? Where could he hide?
He should not make a hasty escape immediately.
Moving thoughtlessly might lead Pyrot-Cocri to ask Chiyou if the ‘one fleeing is on your side’, and Chiyou would grasp the situation instantly.
Yet, staying around was not an option either.
If the increasingly wary Chiyou employed a sensing skill, it would be difficult to avoid her watchful eyes.
He needed a place where he could hide himself while ensuring his safety at the same time!
Petyr yearned for such a place.
『”I told you, I am merely collecting pieces of my power! This entire 〈Peklo City〉 is made of my bones!”』
Even if everything in Peklo City hadn’t turned into bone dust and started collapsing, Petyr would have swiftly found such a place.
“Buhihi, 〈Invisibility〉, 〈Size Reduction〉.”
However, the immediate task at hand was to conceal himself first.
In the collapsing city, he shrank himself down to the size of a small insect and became invisible to move swiftly.
Avoiding Chiyou’s ‘gaze’ was indeed a brilliant choice. Yet, if he were to be hit even once by debris falling faster than the speed at which the city turned into dust, survival would be difficult for Petyr too.
“This kind of play is something I haven’t had fun with in ages!”
Petyr’s acrobatic movements, leaping and twirling on each falling stone, were the epitome of acrobatics.
Just when he thought the name 〈Midnight Circus〉 was rightly earned, Chiyou looked towards one of the entrances leading into Peklo City.
“That, that’s―.”
“Uhihihit, those too are definitely part of ‘my power’. If we are to eliminate Ha Leeha-oppa… Kikihit! We need to gather even more.”
Where had they appeared from?
Various undead had started pouring down from the entrance.
With the singular objective of ‘returning to Pyrot-Cocri’, the monsters, governed by this order, even appeared zombie-like to Petyr.
‘No, not just zombie-like―these undead are―.’
They were literal zombies.
Within this frenzy of zombies rushing towards him, Petyr saw clearly.
These entities were all summoned or dominated by Pyrot-Cocri’s reach or possible control over the undead.
Regardless of whether they were planted externally beforehand, the command of the 『Queen of the Undead』 absolutely dominated them.
Naturally, there had to be one.
Petyr, now reduced to ant-size, ran and ran.
He could sense Pyrot-Cocri was aware of him.
Because, all living beings within what she referred to as her ‘stomach’ could be sensed by her.
So what about him, sprinting from the castle towards the exit?
Would Pyrot-Cocri let his movements go unchallenged?
“Buhihi! Of course not!”
By now, the information would have reached Chiyou.
Among their party, there was someone who handled firearms at a level akin to Ha Leeha. In that case!
“Buhihihihit―! 〈Revert to Original〉!”
Simultaneously growing back to his original size and executing a cartwheel without letting his hands touch the ground,
Snap―!
As a stone sprang from the earth, a gunshot echoed through the air.
Bang─────────!
“Petyr!”
“I’ve gained all I can, Chiyouoo! Buhi, buhihihit! Thanks for the bonus gift!”
Petyr twisted his body efficiently.
The duration of his airborne leap, incomparable to that of an Olympic gymnast, allowed for a dynamic yet smooth thrust.
“Directoooooooooor―!”
What Petyr had seen while running in his small form was unmistakable.
Among the undead horde charging mindlessly, the one with an exposed face, who was unmistakably akin to the former leader of the Midnight Circus.
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Petyr’s fingernails pierced into the heart of an undead, unable to utilize any knowledge from its past life, to obey Pyrot-Cocri’s unconditional recall command.
“Haha! It’s useless! Unlike regular undead, the ones I created myself simply won’t —.”
Sizzle!
“—die— What’s going on!? How— You! That, that blood!”
“Buhihihihit!”
“Kyle! Brown! Elizabeth! Kill that bastard at once!”
Chiyou’s shout was accompanied by the thunderous sound of a gunshot, but by then, a pale purple flash had already erupted. Petyr, tearing a scroll, vanished swiftly from Peklo City.
“Received an order from Pyrot-Cocri and could do nothing?”
“Buhihihit, yes. It was entirely focused only on Pyrot-Cocri. I had never seen such a dazed expression on the director, even when he was alive.”
Listening to Petyr’s detailed explanation, Leeha and the members of Byulcho were deep in thought.
Something was definitely unusual about Peklo City being reduced to bone dust.
And they even referred to it as a ‘Fragment of Power’?
‘If she was summoning all undead, then that too must have been…’
It would empower Pyrot-Cocri.
Even capturing Pyrot-Cocri’s avatar had been so difficult, and now, not only had she fully resurrected, but had also begun absorbing the undead scattered everywhere?
“This is madness.”
Leeha muttered unconsciously.
“Then, you don’t know what happens next, Petyr?”
“Buhihit, of course not.”
Leeha could approximately guess. There probably hadn’t been much change in their plans.
They would have entered the ‘Abyssal Maw,’ leaving behind others who were unaware of the location, the very place where Ghibrid had awakened.
“Both the Demon King’s army and Chiyou have had their powers reinforced.”
Hyein furrowed his brow.
Leeha nodded in response. Jin Gonggong tilted his head slightly for a moment.
“The Demon King’s army has Pyrot-Cocri, but what does Chiyou have—”
“Kikit, Dark Elf. Considering the circumstances, there’s only one Dark Elf Chiyou might command.”
“—Ah! Kaztor!”
Every user present could easily perceive it.
That was the reason Leeha hadn’t bothered to explain.
The content of the deal between Chiyou and Le was the resurrection of Pyrot-Cocri and the transformation of the Dark Elf Kaztor into an undead!
Chiyou’s purpose was clear.
“Petyr, you mentioned that an undead can use all the skills from when it was alive?”
“Buhihihit! At least the undead created directly by Pyrot-Cocri had that capability. There shouldn’t be any changes in memories or technical aspects.”
“Dammit. I see.”
All the information related to “Arcane Sniper”.
That was precisely what Chiyou aimed for.
More than what Kidd and Luger knew, even surpassing Leeha’s knowledge in some areas, Chiyou would grasp the intricacies of Arcane Sniper.
“Ugh… What’s all this? They keep getting stronger while we took down Tiamat and received almost no substantial rewards.”
Bobae also expressed her understanding of the situation with a grumble.
Though they hadn’t received any rewards yet, the enemies had effectively claimed theirs, hadn’t they?
When Bobae spoke, everyone nodded in agreement, as if affirming her words, and Hyein laughed.
“Haha, isn’t surviving the reward itself? Gaining this kind of experience is the reward too.”
His statement left not only the users but even Leeha bewildered.
As the atmosphere grew tense for a moment, Hyein quickly coughed a few times and added, “If you only care about money, you might end up like I did before, right?”
With that, he threw in a self-deprecating joke about his own misadventures.
Although this topic was sensitive, especially for the existing guild members of ‘Byulcho’, Hyein used it mockingly to disparage himself.
Bobae’s voice grew louder at his playful jest.
“Really! When, when did I ever say I wanted compensation in money? Hyein oppa, don’t talk like, huh, like a monk! In a game, of all places! We survived, so the survivors should be generously rewarded! That’s what it means to crush the Demon King’s army again!”
“Kihihi, that’s right. A materialistic reward is just right for Bobae. Something like stats or attribute resistance―.”
“Biyemi-ssi~?”
“―Ki, kihihi! I take it back!”
However, instead of remaining tense, the atmosphere actually lightened and became lively due to Hyein’s comments.
Leeha also chuckled as he observed the bustling members of Byulcho.
With the undoubtedly empowered Pyrot-Cocri joining the Demon King’s army, Bluebeard and Ghibrid would wield even greater strength than before.
‘Perhaps just having all three of the Demon King’s Fragments could create a synergistic effect.’
As Kaztor revived, Chiyou would also acquire diversified methods for utilizing Arcane Sniper.
Regardless, they could not just sit idle.
More importantly, now was not the time for that.
Whoosh!
Next to Bobae, the radiating light purple hue symbolized Leeha’s new future as well.
“Tada! The guild master has arrived!”
“Kijung!”
“Kay, you’re here.”
Kijung appeared, striking a peculiar pose that did not fit the demeanor of a guild master at all. Maybe he already knew about the uproarious atmosphere here.
Even Shin Nara, who had been wearing a somewhat gloomy expression, blossomed into a bright smile upon seeing Kijung.
However, no one could match Leeha’s expression.
“Kijung-ah.”
“Hyung.”
The eyes of all the users, including Petyr and Biyemi, turned toward the cousin brothers. Leeha extended his hand toward Kijung.
Kijung rummaged through his bag and pulled out a small bottle.
“Buhihiht?! The ‘Holy Water Containing Ahlo’s Blood’?”
Petyr was the first to recognize the item.
As someone who had received a few drops from Kijung and experienced its effects, he had a particularly strong impression of it. Yet, he could not understand why Kijung was handing the item to Leeha.
Leeha took the item from Kijung.
『Holy Water Containing Ahlo’s Blood』
Effect: Grants a Divine Relic effect for one attack
Description: Among the many Divine Relics of the Ezwen Papacy, it is said to have received the most special blessing. The holy water, rumored to contain the blood of the main deity Ahlo, has been regarded as precious within the Papacy for generations. However, no one has ever confirmed whether it truly contains the deity’s blood. Regardless of the existence of the technique or magic to extract the blood of deities, all the church members of Ezwen understand that doubting divine grace is in itself a foolish endeavor.
‘The word ‘myth’ isn’t even in it.’
It was an item without a grade, and truthfully, an item that needed no grade whatsoever.
Since it involved the 『name』 of a being revered as a deity within Middle Earth, what need was there for something like a ‘myth’?
Leeha had looked at the item description and let out a wry laugh.
No one had ever verified it.
Doubting the words of a god itself was blasphemous, but since there was no way to verify it, everyone just believed in the efficacy contained in this holy water.
However, for Leeha, it became a completely different matter.
There was the Black Bass.
A predator that ravenously devoured blood and consumed everything.
Having been further activated by consuming the blood of Tiamat, the Black Bass could surely unravel the truth of this matter.
If only that could be accomplished!
“Thank you. I think… this will do.”
“Thank me for what? Haven’t I told you before? If hyung gets stronger, even the scraps are worth it for me. Haha.”
Kijung, somewhat bashfully, deflected his words, but the relationship between the two wasn’t entirely one-sided.
As much as Leeha thought of Kijung, Kijung also cared about Leeha.
In a mutually symbiotic relationship, just as Leeha was about to analyze the Black Bass.
A purplish light shimmered once more beside Kijung.
* * *
“Master Kay!”
“Oh, oh, Raphaela-nim?”
“What are you doing here― here? I told you to re-login as soon as possible!”
“Well― you see, something came up……”
“What could be more urgent than C9?”
Saintess Raphaela urgently sought out Kijung.
Seeing her unusually flustered, Kijung was momentarily taken aback.
Hadn’t he meticulously prepared for the election of the Nine Cardinals’ Committee?
“I-I apologize. But why are you so― is something wrong?”
Only a few days ago, thanks to the Tiamat incident, Kijung’s reputation was soaring within the Ezwen Papacy, which made it hard for him to understand Raphaela’s conduct.
“We’re going to lose! I mean, we’ve already lost!”
“Raphaela, calm down and speak clearly. What’s going on? There’s still a day left before the C9 announcement, right?”
Listening to Raphaela’s rambling, Leeha interjected.
If it’s related to the Ezwen Papacy, had something occurred that was so dire that even someone like her, comparable to Lark, had given up?
“We can’t… use that day meaningfully. The gathering of opinions from the church leaders will be over by tonight. At most by dawn. Tomorrow is just the formal announcement, and now… it’s too late to overturn the church leaders.”
It didn’t take long for Raphaela to convey what had happened during the ‘open forum of the Ezwen Papacy’ held two days ago.
The issue was straightforward.
“Did they ask for… evidence?”
“Yes. As per the explanation in Jannate’s Key, 〈The Spiritual Symbol Theory〉 has been a longstanding dominant thesis. Most NPC believers support it. Well… no one’s ever seen or recorded what supposedly is the ‘corporeal form’ of a god, so it’s a natural conclusion.”
“B-but― isn’t it strange? They have the Demon King’s Fragments! With those ‘fragments’ roaming the continent—why assume that god lacks a corporeal form?”
“On the contrary, that also paradoxically denies the material existence of a god. Extremists say, there’s no ‘fragment of god’ wandering around, is there? Divine power comes solely from faith. The 〈Physical Actuality Theory〉, suggesting that the Supreme God Ahlo has a form like humans and even resides at a specific location, with Jannate’s Key being the tool to meet this god… is considered, in some respects, an affront to the god. Understandably, it hasn’t been thoroughly researched and remains a minority view. Unless we can decisively break their absolute dogma… it’s going to be hard to win.”
The conflict between the dominant 〈Spiritual Symbol Theory〉 and the minority 〈Physical Actuality Theory〉 had turned what was initially an adventure-driven petition towards Laputa into an unwinnable battle.
Moreover, a resolution couldn’t possibly be achieved in a mere day.
Only one person, Leeha, showed a slightly different expression and tilted his head.
“In other words, if there was evidence… would that be enough?”
“Yes. Evidence, a witness, or proof. We can’t―.”
“No, I think it might be possible.”
“―W-what? Ha Leeha thinks so?”
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Raphaela’s eyes widened.
Not only the members of Byulcho, but even Petyr had a look of ‘what is that supposed to mean?’ However, Leeha was composed.
It was true that there was no Fragment of the God.
But weren’t there entities that assisted the God?
“I don’t know the exact name yet, but let’s see…”
Leeha rummaged through his bag. What he pulled out was a not-so-large piece of cloth.
“Ah, this is it. Kijung, could you hold this side?”
“Huh? Oh, okay.”
Kijung, caught off-guard, held one end of the cloth passed by Leeha.
Leeha took a few steps away from Kijung and spread the cloth wide. It was not thick, and a drawing was depicted on the thin fabric.
It was a kind of tapestry.
What was peculiar was that it was difficult to guess its origin.
“This is…”
Raphaela brought his face close enough to the fabric to clean his face with it and examined the drawing. Other users also momentarily held their breath.
Leeha glanced at her and smiled awkwardly.
“Is this satisfactory? Ah, to tell you in advance… Laputa—that is, it depicts those who received God’s power from the ‘Land where the power of God melted away’. Fernand restored the drawings from the relics found there, and through the technology of the Saurus tribe, it has been replicated once more.”
An item received from the King of Saur Land.
〈Reconstruction of the Sealed Legend―Those Who Received God’s Power〉
Description: Even the Saur Land, which managed Laputa for a long time, could not know the truth of Laputa. Who were the beings that lived in the land where the power of God melted away? The answer to this question could finally be found after the return of 『The 2782nd Laputa Expedition』, and the King of Saur Land produced this tapestry to share the joy and to swiftly cooperate for an item to be used as the key to the ‘Stairway to Heaven.’ When the right power is encountered, the tapestry will recreate the sealed legend.
Leeha read the item’s description once more.
In truth, he thought of it merely as a decoration or souvenir due to the absence of special effects. However, wasn’t it clearly written in the last line?
“Raphaela.”
“Yes?”
The right power.
It was true that he had pondered for a while over what exactly that could be.
Yet, at the time of returning from Saur Land, Leeha was so busy with all sorts of things that he had no leisure to think further.
Though it was an excuse rather than a justification, at present, he possessed a clear answer.
What is the ‘right power’ for those who received God’s power?
“Like using a skill, could you try using your divine power here?”
“Di–vine power– Ah, hold on.”
Raphaela nodded as if entranced by something. Even with a dazed look, her actions betrayed no delay.
She placed her hand on the tapestry held by Leeha and Kijung and, as if using a skill, she carefully injected her divine power, using a part of her divine force.
And at that moment, the winged entities depicted on the tapestry began to move. The truths surrounding 〈Laputa〉 and 〈Those Who Received God’s Power〉, which Saur Land had been researching, were being relayed as though they were being played out chronologically.
“Hyung, with this…”
Kijung looked at Leeha with teary eyes.
Raphaela still couldn’t tear her eyes away from the tapestry. Leeha glanced at Kijung and nodded.
“With this, you can smash the jaws of those who joke about the ‘Spiritual Symbol’, right?”
“Of course! What is this even! This is the ‘evidence’ itself! Hyung!”
“Don’t move! We still need to see more!”
Kijung managed to halt himself from running to Leeha due to Raphaela’s sharp shout.
The intricate patterns still being revealed on the tapestry left the members of Bicheol in awe.
“What on earth… What does one have to do to receive something like this? Oh, had I known, I would have joined the Eastern Expedition too!”
“Hehe, do you think you would have gotten it just by going?”
“What are you saying, Biyemi?”
“Oh, no. I mean, of course, you would have. Heh, hehe.”
As Bobae and Biyemi bickered once again, Hyein scratched the back of his head.
“Haha, but Biyemi’s words aren’t entirely wrong. Like you can’t simply understand Ha Leeha’s work with just your mind… This item, too, isn’t something you receive just by trying hard to obtain it. Isn’t that right?”
Listening to Hyein’s question, Leeha shook his head.
He wanted to say it wasn’t particularly special, but in truth, Hyein’s statement wasn’t completely wrong.
Not all users who went to Laputa received this item.
“Yes, with this, we can definitely win. The bishops won’t easily be able to refute it. Even if they continue to support the ‘Spiritual Symbol Theory’ — except for a few completely rotten members on the Parnese side… Primarily, the bishops are similar to researchers. They can’t help but be swayed by the ‘desire to verify the truth’.”
If what was inscribed on this tapestry was true, Raphaela was confident she would endure all risks necessary to transport the ‘Key of Jannate’ to the eastern part of the New Continent.
Yet, Leeha wondered why her expression wasn’t bright, and Ram Hwayeon knew the answer.
“The problem is time, isn’t it?”
“Huh, Hwayeon?”
When Leeha asked in confusion, Raphaela nodded.
“Yes. We don’t have the time to show and convince all the bishops by tonight. There’s only one item… Moreover, bishops aren’t the kind of people you can meet so easily — if they intentionally avoid or refuse to meet, it would all end without showing them.”
“Isn’t that actually fortunate?”
“Huh?”
When Raphaela asked what she meant by that, Ram Hwayeon smirked.
With a few nods of her chin, she pointed somewhere. Specifically, she gestured toward Miyaw beside Biyemi.
“Here, we have the best assassin in Middle Earth. Petyr, this request would be nothing for you, right?”
“Ah! Petyr—.”
“Buhihihi! The first mission of the ‘Midnight Circus’ leader ends with just finding Ezwen’s bishop? That can’t be. Unless it’s about taking the head of the Hwahong Guild Master!”
Despite his provocative tone, Ram Hwayeon didn’t get mad. Someone else got angrier faster than she did.
“Petyr, watch your words.”
“Wha, huh?”
“It’s a game, and even though you’re an assassin, to be saying things like that… Don’t you have many debts to the people here right now? If you keep this up, I can’t maintain a good relationship with ‘Midnight Circus’. You’re not the only assassin around.”
Leeha spoke as calmly as possible.
However, the implications in his words were far from peaceful. The warning that Petyr wasn’t the only assassin carried a significant meaning.
“Hyung, hyung.”
The reactions of Kijung and Biyemi were enough to cause bewilderment, but the users who were unaware of Leeha and Ram Hwayeon’s relationship were startled by Leeha’s firm demeanor.
Biyemi glanced at Petyr momentarily. The Miyaw’s gaze sharpened more than ever, yet he didn’t offer any rebuttal to Leeha.
A mere individual against Middle Earth’s largest assassination group? It would’ve been dismissed as an absurd joke by anyone else.
Yet, Petyr couldn’t laugh.
As an assassin, Leeha’s sniping was the type that logged you out from a distance farther than anyone else, at a timing where you couldn’t even realize you’d been hit. Petyr himself had once been the target.
Leeha made eye contact with Petyr briefly. Then he smiled.
“Well, I understand that Petyr must have his reasons. As the leader, his first mission must be like a ‘quest’, right? And the first quest should come with a special reward or something… If that’s why you can’t help, I understand. I’m merely asking you to watch your words, no need to take it too seriously. Haha! There are others who can help besides Petyr.”
He didn’t end up expressing intentions of helping Leeha, but then again, Leeha never expected his help in the first place.
Petyr’s assistance in conveying the situation when Pyrot-Cocri awoke was already more than enough.
Moreover, there was no need to make an enemy out of Petyr. Especially since there were other candidates to assist with the current task, Leeha saw no reason to cling to him.
“Yes? Ha Leeha, is there anyone else?”
“Yes. Shin Nara will help.”
Leeha answered simply to Raphaela’s question. No one fully understood Leeha’s words, not even Shin Nara, who was surprised to hear her name mentioned.
“I-I will? Of course—if it’s in the name of the Sacred Order, I can at least locate the bishops within the capital of Fibiel—but…”
“No, no. Haha… It’s not exactly that you’d be helping directly, Nara. You can log out briefly and reconnect, right?”
From Leeha’s question, Shin Nara finally understood his plan. She could contribute, but not directly; Leeha needed the person in contact with Shin Nara.
Listening to Leeha’s plan, Petyr burst out laughing and then left.
* * *
The plaza of the Vatican City was bustling since dawn. Announcements for the new members of C9, the “Council of Nine Cardinals,” needed to be prepared.
The gathering of fifty bishops in one place was as rare as a meeting of the cardinals spread across the continent.
It underscored that this event had to be far more significant and grand than something like the public debate that took place a few days earlier.
In comparison, it was considered almost as crucial as the conclave for electing a new pope.
“Will Master Kay get elected?”
“The battle of Tiamat was impressive, but who knows. They say Parnese put up a strong effort as well.”
“If only Master Kay was independent. Instead, getting involved with ‘Key of Jannate’ and the ‘Physical Substantialism’ faction—”
“Hey, let’s get it right. He wasn’t really involved! That bastard, when you were almost eaten by the chimera, it was Master Kay and the Special Guard who saved you. When you finally survived and needed healing, it was the Saintess who did it!”
“No, no! I cheer for him too! It’s just important for a player to join C9 for the first time, but the reality of it seems impractical.”
As much as NPCs held conversations here and there, users had also gathered in large numbers.
Most were affiliated with the Vatican City state or at least actively engaged in jobs related to holy power, even if from other countries.
“Anyway, one player needs to make it in so others can rise too. Man, couldn’t even level up because of the church affinity grind…”
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“So, here’s the thing. It’s tough to even get a position as a vice-abbot—if one of the users comes out, it would be a bit better.”
“Ah… Fibiel or Minis at least have some famous figures. Shazrashian is really a hopeless case.”
Even though there were a few who sincerely supported Kijung from the heart, after all, this was Middle Earth. Personal gain was prioritized above all else, and it was natural that no one criticized or found it strange.
As preparations were underway, the first group finally made their appearance. Unlike the last public discussion, where seats were divided left/right, many seats were set up in front of the Pope’s podium. Nevertheless, the group that appeared excluded all the seats on the left and only sat on the right side.
Of course, there were so many people that even sitting only on the right side inevitably occupied a significant portion of the left seats.
At that moment, everyone knew which group within the Papacy had the most members. In the very first row, directly in front of the Pope’s podium, a person sat prominently, raising their nose high in pride.
“It’s the Parnese faction!”
“Wow… indeed. To win, you had to align with this side.”
“They say Sergio is an amazing NPC. The smartest move is to push Sergio for Pope and secure a spot as a cardinal right away.”
To the right of Parnese sat Sergio. Despite being the youngest cardinal, he was a legendary NPC significant enough to occupy the second seat in the Parnese faction.
Not all users cheered for Kijung and Raphaela; it wasn’t surprising that some users wanted to latch onto Sergio.
“Just looking at their expressions says it all.”
“Exactly. The Pope’s faction cardinals haven’t even shown up yet.”
They glanced across with triumphant faces. Except for the Parnese faction members, major NPCs hadn’t made their appearance yet.
“It looks like most of the diocesan bishops are gathered now.”
“Hehe, maybe it’s their first time in such a position. Some of those diocesan bishops seem so nervous, don’t they?”
“Look at that! The Kraven Southern Bishop! That guy was all arrogant yesterday, not even giving quests, but now he’s trembling like an aspen leaf!”
The bishops in the Parnese faction naturally showed up with Parnese, and many neutral bishops made their appearance as well.
They had the right to speak on the composition of the Nine Cardinals Committee and had submitted opinions related to the appointments, so they were seated behind the Pope.
Since the Pope himself was the bishop of the Ezwen Diocese, there were precisely 49 seats arranged behind the Pope.
Though some bishops representing the 50 dioceses in the Lope Continent also held cardinal positions, many did not.
Now, the seat for the 45th bishop had been found. This meant that the inauguration ceremony was about to begin.
“Ah, it can’t end like this…”
“Won’t Raphaela do something? What if she marries Master Kay, wouldn’t that change something?”
“You fool, what does that have to do with anything?”
As the users cheering for Kijung began to tap their feet anxiously, a commotion started to stir in the plaza.
“They’ve arrived!”
“Master Kay is here! Even the Cardinals of the Pope’s Faction have arrived!”
Though they did not openly move alongside the Pope, the arrival of the Papal Cardinals instantly changed the atmosphere within the venue.
Kijung, distinct in armor and arms as opposed to the others, led the procession of Cardinals, appearing as though he was leading them.
Kijung confidently advanced and took a seat directly in front of the Pope’s podium, to the immediate left of Parnese.
“Ahem, Exorcism Cardinal. I thought you might not attend. I heard the injuries from the battle against Tiamat haven’t fully healed.”
“Indeed, as Parnese says, the Exorcism Cardinal does not look well.”
As soon as Parnese and Sergio noticed Kijung, they spoke up.
Kijung merely offered them a faint smile. He knew all too well that verbal combat with them was not something he could win.
“I thought that perhaps… but it seems this is not an occasion I could miss.”
“Haha, indeed. I am grateful, even just for the sentiment.”
At Kijung’s soft reply, a sly smile crept onto Parnese’s lips.
Such a subtle glimpse into the NPC’s true intentions was a privilege denied to general users or NPCs.
“Grateful for what, exactly?”
“I interpreted your presence here as a congratulatory gesture for the selection of Cardinal Sergio into the C9. As someone who guided Sergio, I accept it with gratitude.”
“Nothing has been decided yet. Once everything is set… then I will gladly accept your congratulations, Exorcism Cardinal.”
In response to Kijung’s simple question, Parnese and Sergio simultaneously answered. Kijung met their gaze for a while.
“Or… does it not mean that, Exorcism Cardinal?”
The proud expressions of the NPCs began to subtly harden.
Upon Parnese’s words, Kijung folded his arms and pondered for a moment. As Kijung gave a thoughtful hum, Sergio swallowed dryly.
At that moment, the doors of the Papal House swung open and fanfare erupted.
Bam ba ba bam―!
His Holiness the Pope is entering―!
Kijung, glancing at Parnese and Sergio, said,
“What? Wait a moment. I couldn’t quite catch that―.”
As the NPCs displayed signs of bewilderment, Kijung’s mouth stretched into a wide grin.
As the Pope appeared, blessing and delivering opening remarks, a few users at a distant cafeteria from the Aezwen Papal plaza slouched wearily over tables.
“It will go well, right?”
The woman at the table, with hair disheveled and head buried in her arms, prompted Leeha to chuckle softly at her appearance.
“Yes, perhaps. But Raphaela-nim, even though you are a Saintess… Isn’t it improper to sit with your legs so wide open in the Ezwen Square?”
“Aah, I don’t know, I’m tired. Dealing with people—or rather, working with NPCs—is the hardest. Anyway, nobody cares about me. If the Pope has appeared, who would pay attention to me?”
Even in her disheveled state, she acted only after calculating the boundaries and timing that wouldn’t ruin her image. Leeha shook his head as he observed her.
“Handling NPCs is exhausting enough, yet we must involve only the necessary people. But you wanted to meet them all… It seems your stubbornness matches your siblings’. Also, ‘perhaps’? That’s hardly an optimistic outlook.”
Raphaela responded curtly, her head still buried on the table.
Leeha could understand her feelings. Her actions were akin to forcing conversations to avoid falling asleep from exhaustion.
From almost yesterday afternoon until just a few hours ago, Leeha, Raphaela, and Kijung had been working to persuade all the bishops of the Lope Continent.
Some of them were irreversibly affiliated with the Parnese faction.
Raphaela had insisted that they should exclude those who might leak their operation to Parnese’s ears, but Leeha and Kijung disagreed.
“But… didn’t you see why you needed to meet everyone, Raphaela-nim?”
“Well… it’s obviously good to be unanimous. Besides, if, as Master Kay-ssi mentioned, bishops are replaced frequently, it will only undermine the trust in the Ezwen Papacy. From this perspective, I agree.”
Although she grumbled, Raphaela couldn’t argue against Kijung’s reasoning.
If bishops were constantly replaced, it might be politically disadvantageous for the Pope, who was already lacking in political aspects.
Moreover, removing all bishops from Parnese could look bad externally. Thus, Kijung proposed leaving them.
Of course, there was a larger purpose behind Raphaela’s stance as well.
“—In any case, it’s not a bad choice in terms of demonstrating the Pope’s political inclusiveness. Considering the possibility of the new appointees possibly diverging into opposing factions, it’s better for the Pope to absorb the bishops from Parnese to strengthen his power. Once we ensure control over Parnese, there won’t be any unexpected enemies popping up. But this will also depend on Master Kay-ssi eventually getting selected in the C9… Honestly, sometimes it’s hard to tell if he’s just kind-hearted, thoughtless, or drawing an enormously big picture.”
Without even glancing at the central plaza where the Pope stood, Raphaela, her head still on the table, demonstrated an in-depth grasp of the religious shifts in Middle Earth and Ezwen.
Leeha listened to Raphaela’s words and simply nodded, but the man sitting next to him felt differently.
He glanced at the back of Raphaela’s head with a somewhat surprised expression.
“Well… if she’s this capable, we need not worry about the diplomatic relations between our country and the Ezwen Papacy.”
“Is that a compliment or…? Anyway, I’m more surprised.”
Raphaela suddenly lifted her upper body to face the man sitting opposite her. He flinched momentarily but did not evade Raphaela’s gaze.
“To think a user could have infiltrated this deeply into the Kingdom of Minis. Had we known earlier, the position of Grand Abbess of Minis would’ve been secured already.”
“The current Grand Abbess is a significant figure bringing immense benefits to our country, not only materially but also by arranging for distinguished followers of Kraven to naturalize. Simply dismissing him would—”
“Do you doubt my ability to do that? Minis and Kraven are allies, and I can extract what I need from the allied force without arousing hostility.”
“That’s not the case. A person who has discerned such matters wouldn’t make a mistake.”
The man immediately shook his head in response to Raphaela’s incisive question. Leeha couldn’t help but laugh at the scene.
What he had asked for from Shin Nara the previous day wasn’t merely to convey a message to Lark.
For they couldn’t expect direct help from a user who couldn’t log in. But wasn’t there someone Leeha had personally experienced?
‘I knew he would move if Lark made a request.’
With a faint smile, Leeha thanked the man sitting next to him.
“Anyway, thank you, Cheka-nim. Thanks to you, we managed to conclude things without incident.”
The time it took for Cheka, the secret police of Minis, to locate the positions of 49 bishops across the Lope Continent was a mere thirty minutes.
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After Shin Nara had established a connection, Leeha, accompanied by Kijung and Raphaela, met with Cheka. Cheka had merely stepped out for about ten minutes before returning.
Upon his return, Cheka opened a small booklet, verifying the names of the bishops from the 49 dioceses on the Lope Continent, along with their residences and main areas of activity.
“Can we trust this information?”
Leeha listened as Cheka recited the information, tilting his head in skepticism. Could it even be possible to gather such detailed information in just ten minutes?
Cheka calmly responded to his doubts.
“This was copied from the list at Minis’s central monastery. There’s no reason to doubt it.”
Upon hearing the answer that even NPCs within the country were monitored, and their information taken and used without permission, Leeha and Kijung shook their heads.
‘What a madman. Even if he’s acting for Minis’s interest… Well, secret police often do such things.’
It was reminiscent of Nazi Germany during World War II. However, Raphaela’s eyes sparkled as she observed Cheka. Seeing her reaction, Leeha shook his head slightly.
With all the necessary addresses confirmed by Cheka, convincing the bishops was no longer a significant hurdle for Leeha, Raphaela, and Kijung.
They only had to show the bishops the sight of illustrations moving on tapestries made with the technology from Saur Land.
Leeha, and even Kijung, were unaware, but Raphaela intuited the drawings as soon as she saw them for a specific reason.
“This is the very thing described in the Bible…”
“Yes. They are entities that served God. Bishop, wouldn’t you know best…? The Key of Jannate was truly based on the physical doctrine and was created so that our lambs could find their way when they strayed.”
Each drawing depicted core content found in the early scriptures of Middle Earth, including the creation narrative.
When Fernand re-created the Key of Jannate and showed its perfect fit at the entrance to the ‘Stairway to Heaven’, even Leeha felt a poignant sensation, so much that it was no surprise the devout NPCs would immediately start praying.
The repeated ‘convincing efforts’ posed no particular challenge, but Cheka stayed with them till the end.
Leeha expressed his gratitude for Cheka’s dedication, even though Cheka interpreted Leeha’s gratitude differently.
Cheka wasn’t just confirming locations but had taken the lead in shouldering the workload for a reason.
“No need for thanks. I did it solely for the benefits of our nation. Once Master Kay is safely inducted as one of the nine cardinal members and receives the Key of Jannate…, you must pay special attention to bringing Lark to Laputa.”
It was always a ‘transaction’ and thus only natural to fulfill his duty.
Leeha nodded at the secret police officer’s cold and rational demeanor.
“He’s quite cunning, isn’t he?”
“… Lark is one of our nation’s key human assets. Naturally.”
“Indeed.”
One reason Leeha marveled at Lark again the previous evening was when Shin Nara logged out and entrusted something to Lark. Lark had roughly grasped the particulars by that point.
Thus, Lark, who predicted the prospective ‘flow’, conveyed one message to Leeha through Shin Nara.
He would persuade Cheka in exchange for ensuring that Lark and Shin Nara would accompany them to ‘Laputa’.
Lark believed that once Cheka started assisting Leeha, the sequence of events leading to Kijung’s selection as C9 would unfold smoothly.
Leeha, too, had little to worry about.
‘The journey to Laputa won’t be easy this time around.’
Having established a third power and with Chiyou reviving Kaztor as an undead, she would be lying low somewhere in the eastern part of the New Continent.
Even if Brown or Elizabeth didn’t pose a threat, there existed the top-grade sniper in the Middle Earth system, ‘Kyle’.
If he targeted Leeha and the Laputa-bound users, breaking through alone wouldn’t be an easy task.
And what about the ‘exposed enemy’, the Demon King’s army?
Though Bluebeard and Ghibrid suffered damage in the recent Tiamat battle, hasn’t reinforcements strong enough to more than compensate for that damage been added?
‘Pyrot-Cocri had said it. When three Demon King’s Fragment gather… a power different from before will manifest.’
How this power would present itself was unknown.
However, considering only the Demon King’s Fragment, the situation now mirrored the ‘2nd Human-Demon War’.
‘Thus, we too need power.’
Would the previous numbers suffice? Or a change in members?
Bringing Blaugrunn should suffice. It was something Leeha earnestly desired, with Shin Nara and Lark joining their ranks.
“Over there…”
Leeha suddenly glanced at the now noisy plaza of the Vatican. The murmurs of players and NPCs rekindled the spirit in the eyes of Raphaela, who had been lost in fatigue. As expected, unexpected results did not cause a commotion.
“Yes! Cheka! Let’s do a high-five!”
The moment Raphaela raised her hand, proposing a high-five to Cheka, the Pope’s words faintly reached Leeha.
『―Thus, with the increasing likelihood of the “Physical Substantialism”, it cannot simply be overlooked. Furthermore, due to the arduous journey needed to confirm it, unlike previous cardinals, this time, the unanimous opinion of the diocesan leaders is that a person proficient in exorcism and suitable for adventures is required. I also believe that a significant reform of the “Council of Nine Cardinals” is needed, so I announce the dismissal of Cardinal Pell―』
“Cough, ahem.”
Cheka quietly showed his palm, prompting a smile from Raphaela. She stood up and offered her hand to him. No longer able to hesitate, Cheka joined in the high-five.
Clap―!
『―and declare the appointment of Master Kay, the Exorcism Cardinal, as a new member of the “Council of Nine Cardinals”.』
The first-ever player C9 member was born. As Kijung stood at the Pope’s call, his body emitted a bright white light. It was the unanimous agreement of 50 dioceses, including the Pope! Normally, Sergio would have immediately stood up to rebut. But now?
As Kijung ascended the podium, he seemed enveloped in divine radiance as if receiving a holy calling. Before the unexpected twist and the palpable holiness that surpassed the comprehension of NPCs, they were left agape and speechless.
“Congratulations, Kijung.”
Leeha raised his glass from afar, celebrating Kijung. Finally, all the pieces to obtain the “Key of Jannate” were in place.
“Great! Ha Leeha, Cheka! Let’s go too!”
Raphaela cheerfully patted her hair. With everything settled, a celebration was due, wasn’t it? Bobae’s cheers, echoing through the plaza, reached Leeha’s ears.
“Cheka― Huh? What, what? Ha Leeha! Where’s Cheka?”
“Huh? What?”
When the two turned toward the plaza, Cheka had already vanished. It was the perfect term for a user who appeared as if by magic—gone the moment his purpose was fulfilled, leaving no words to be shared.
“… Honestly, both Alexander and Minis are full of drama.”
“I don’t really want to deny it. Ugh, that Cheka, did he just run off?”
While Leeha sighed with a wry smile, Raphaela was genuinely angry. Just as she was about to raise her crystal ball, she calmed her breathing, looking at the Papal plaza. Finding Cheka could wait until later.
“Ha Leeha, aren’t you going? You should show your face to Kijung.”
Right now, wasn’t making a good impression on Kijung more important?
“Pfft. What’s with making an impression on a cousin? Raphaela, you’ve worked hard all night, so go ahead and come back quickly. I’ve got somewhere else to go.”
“Hmm, alright. I won’t insist twice. See you next time then!”
“He he, yes. See you next time.”
Leeha took out a crystal ball and teleported to Gaza City. His destination was the Bottleneck’s blacksmith shop.
***
Bang, bang, bang, bang―!
The sound of the blacksmiths’ hammers rang faster than ever. Only then did Leeha realize he had overlooked something.
“Ha Leeha is here!”
“I knew it! I had a feeling he’d come if we waited here!”
“Ha Leeha! Ha Leeha!”
The floating populace of Gaza City was still on the brink of exploding. When Leeha didn’t return with any information about the ‘Tiamat Reward’, they had been lurking in various parts of Gaza City.
“Wait, wait! Stop, everyone!”
Leeha stepped back urgently, shaking his head, but the users showed no sign of stopping.
Beyond their gazes, Leeha saw Bottleneck’s annoyed expression.
“What did Ewin say?”
“When are they giving out the Tiamat rewards? There’s a rumor that even users who just participated in the battle or caught more than one Chimera are getting rewards—is that true?”
“Where did you get that blacksmith? I entrusted my 〈Hero-grade〉 item for repair, and somehow its overall durability increased! Is that blacksmith 〈Legendary-grade〉 or higher?”
The barrage of questions was overwhelming, and Leeha couldn’t answer them all.
Pushing them aside to deliver Bottleneck the crucial information would also be challenging.
Most importantly, the situation got more chaotic as the surrounding shops’ users also began to gather, leaving Leeha with no options.
“Jellypong! Three-dimensional maneuver—inside!”
『Myong myong!』
“Ha Leeha, where are you going—?”
“〈Melding Breath〉.”
The only feasible action was to secretly pass on his opinion to Bottleneck and slip away!
Utilizing Jellypong’s tentacles to leap over the users and employing 〈Melding Breath〉, one of the skills of the 〈White Reaper〉, Leeha finally found some leeway.
“What, what was that?”
“It seemed like he used a skill, maybe invisibility?”
“Find him! Everyone, detect Ha Leeha! 〈Detect〉!”
“〈Transparent Detection〉!”
“〈Hawk Eye〉!”
Users frantically used all sorts of skills to track Leeha’s trace, but once he’d used 〈Melding Breath〉, it was impossible.
Despite the occasional weight felt on the shoulders of the users, who were intensely focusing on finding him, nobody suspected a thing.
Thus, Jellypong quietly pushed through the bustling crowd and slipped into Bottleneck’s smithy.
‘Damn, what is all this? Sure, the income must have skyrocketed, but—phew! Bottleneck must be losing it.’
Bottleneck and the Beard Brothers watched the commotion of the users outside with dazed expressions.
Seeing them, Leeha chuckled to himself.
He would’ve liked to mingle immediately, but revealing one of his secrets in front of so many users was impossible.
‘In future battles, this could become the biggest card…’
Leeha tapped Bottleneck on the shoulder.
“Hm? What, uh― huh?”
As Bottleneck stood there bewildered, Leeha started writing letters on the dirt floor of the smithy.
Scratch… scrape…
“Gasp!?”
『In two days, at 11 PM, close the place. ―The Magnificent Lord』
“… You crazy guy! You need to clean up these people!”
The moment Bottleneck raised his head, the letters vanished.
Leeha chuckled quietly, then moved away. It was a place worth visiting at least once to prepare for future events.
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“Phew… The skill truly was impressive. They can’t even recognize me here.”
Leeha reached the second floor of a building within Gaza City and deactivated his skill.
Despite being certain that in such a place his skill might get nullified, it seemed impossible even here.
‘Would they have stopped me if I did something malicious?’
It was only natural for Leeha to wonder this. This place was not for typical NPCs. On the ‘first floor’, a massive number of users occupied the tables, with NPCs busily catering to their needs. However, the second floor was a completely different realm.
Knock, knock, knock.
“Madam~?”
The place was used as the office of Fibiel Kingdom’s official NPC Intelligence guild! It housed NPCs authorized to operate outside Middle Earth’s systems.
Even if they appeared to perform simple tasks, it implied they possessed the capability to be by ‘Madam Ju’s’ side. Certainly, some could comprehend terms like level, achievement, grade, and logout.
If someone came seeking the head of the Gaza City branch of the Holy Grail, it was standard procedure for them to ask Ju about any prearranged meetings or consent before guiding the visitor.
Yet, here was Leeha, reaching the door of the second-floor office without any interference.
“Goodness! How did you…?”
Ignoring all usual protocols, Leeha marched directly inside, eliciting such a response.
As he saw Ju, who had not entirely brushed off her confusion from glancing at the staircase leading from the first floor, Leeha felt genuinely pleased.
“Well… I’ve been through quite a bit. Do you have a moment?”
Leeha playfully raised his eyebrows, subtly showcasing his enhanced capabilities. Ju inadvertently nodded, ushering Leeha inside her office.
Only after closing the door and guiding him to the sofa did her expression return to normal. Considering her usual poker face, it was evident she had experienced significant shock.
“Our Lord of the City, incomparable to before, isn’t it? Though, I must say, the power you displayed during the Tiamat War was incredibly impressive to me.”
“Haha, of course. Seems like the Holy Grail’s intel remains top-notch. While what I did during the Tiamat episode is immensely famous—”
“We have been aware ever since the large mana supplier was being constructed. That is our role, after all. By the way, leaving us to collaborate with Minis’s secret police felt rather cold.”
“What? Madam knows about—”
“The matter regarding the Council of the Nine Cardinals. It would have been nice if we established a rapport with Master Kay. Handing it over to Minis’s secret police… that’s disappointing, truly.”
Now, it was Leeha’s turn to look slightly taken aback. How was it that she already knew about an event that hadn’t even happened 12 hours ago?
Ju displayed a subtle smile while looking at Leeha’s face. He mirrored her smile in response.
Exchanging gestures to display resilience to one another. It confirmed that the relationship between Leeha and the Holy Grail had enough merit to continue in the future.
“Ha, haha. I’ve been expanding my connections a bit myself. Naturally, it was something our Madam would be aware of.”
“Indeed. But for happenings in the Old Continent and the western New Continent, you can trust us.”
Hearing this, Leeha nodded. This was part of why he had come here today.
“Then, may I ask you something?”
“Certainly, given our Lord’s contributions, the Holy Grail is about to open its fourth branch. You’re more than welcome to.”
“Alright. Could you find out about the tendencies of the Chromatic Dragons?”
“Hmm… instead of specifying a particular dragon or hue, if you’re looking for general trends, maybe…”
“Yes. The Chromatic Dragons won’t remain idle. With Onyx gone, they too will likely seek to elect a new elder. Dragons, despite their strong individualistic natures, inherently require a leader.”
Was it because he had heard the story of Bahamut from Kurpke?
Leeha had become focused on the position of the “leader” among dragons. They possessed not just strength.
As symbolic beings, they were creatures that proposed the direction for their entire dragon species!
Wasn’t the public’s interest on the broadcast about Bailephus, Alexander’s partner dragon, possibly becoming a Bahamut precisely for this reason?
Therefore, Leeha needed to know.
In order to gauge the future conditions of dragons with color.
“Specifically, is there talk about chromatic dragons, or is there a set location and time if such a position has already been established?”
“Is it possible to know such details?”
Ju responded to Leeha, taking a sip of coffee.
“One of the main tasks of Fibiel’s Intelligence guild is building relationships with chromatic dragons.”
“Yeah? But most chromatic dragons are in Minis.”
“Exactly.”
“Yeah? What’s exact― oh, ah?”
Leeha looked at Ju with a face that seemed as if he had been hit with a sudden realization.
The Holy Grail was strictly speaking the Intelligence guild of “Fibiel!”
Moreover, it was directly affiliated with the royal palace, akin to an institution directly under the king.
Then, one of the scenarios they had to prepare for was what?
It had to be the war between Fibiel and Minis after the 「Sacred Alliance」 established a new order.
What if they could incorporate some chromatic dragons into Fibiel’s forces and conduct guerrilla warfare across Minis!?
“What about the management of metal dragons, on the contrary?”
There would also be considerations for activities similar to those conducted in Minis.
Ju did not offer a direct answer to Leeha’s question.
“… This is why I can’t stand our castle lord.”
She said this casually, but she was smiling.
If that was a euphemistic way of expressing how she disliked the castle lord for being overly perceptive, it meant that Leeha’s observation was correct.
Leeha nodded with a satisfied face.
To have that precise information about chromatic dragons was enough for Leeha; everything else was secondary.
“Very well. Then, I will rely on you for intelligence.”
“Leave it to me.”
“And… this is more of a casual question than an investigation.”
“The Demon King’s Fragment?”
As Ju repeated the question, Leeha couldn’t help but smile wryly. He found himself curious about the extent of NPC capabilities.
“Hehe… Rather than an Intelligence guild, shouldn’t you establish a fortune-telling guild?”
“If there are a few major issues dealt with on the continent today, it’s obvious that our castle lord with his wide range of interests can’t just sit back and watch.”
Leeha listened to Ju and asked straightforwardly.
“Then tell me. Now that all three of the Demon King’s Fragments have awakened… what happens next? What significant changes should we expect compared to before?”
Pyrot-Cocri itself had expressed confidence to that extent.
This was what Leeha wondered about.
Ju put down her coffee cup. Her expression turned quite serious.
Leeha heard many stories from him.
“The biggest difference is the environment, huh. Well, back then, the Old Continent was everything.”
Leeha had been scrolling through the official website of Middle Earth.
The 2nd Human-Demon War was a history that had passed. Though it wasn’t detailed, the overall flow of the world view was all recorded on the website, wasn’t it?
It had been several hours since he had logged out after hearing the story from Ju of the Holy Grail.
He wasn’t sure whether to consider the information he had heard useful or useless—it just left Leeha feeling troubled.
『It says when all the Demon King’s Fragments are gathered, there is no limit to their power. It took the collective might of the entire continent’s “Heroes’ Descendants” to barely oppose them… Even then, they managed to expel them with difficulty, if you remember that. To be precise, we did not kill them, nor did we seal them. They simply hid themselves, promising a better future.』
“That’s correct. The pursuit to the New Continent failed, and we couldn’t pose a real threat to the Demon King’s Fragment entities. They just postponed their actions for a clearer time. Luger woke them up, leading the gears to turn again…”
This meant the present moment had arrived.
When Luger awakened Le, it was within the expected timeframe of Goople.
But afterward?
Ghibrid awakened faster than expected, and Pyrot-Cocri even woke sooner.
That was the very part Leeha had hoped for.
If the Demon King’s Fragments had been awakened sooner than expected, then there might be a possibility that they hadn’t accumulated enough power yet, he hoped.
『If they hadn’t gathered enough power, they wouldn’t have awakened… Luger included similar details in the report to the Ezwen Papal Office. Oh, didn’t you hear? Luger seems to be close with our Lord. The Demon King’s Fragments don’t awaken just by pounding on them. They can only come out when they break their own seal with determination, as Luger reported.』
That was already a hopeless expectation that even Ju denied.
After contemplating Ju’s words for a long time, Leeha finally understood her completely.
What Luger reported to the Papal Office?
While it was unclear how detailed it was, if the Intelligence Guild or the Papal Office knew about it, it could only mean one thing.
‘That must have been mentioned in Luger’s achievements.’
Ultimately, the Demon King’s Fragments had already accumulated enough power to some extent and waited for players to come and awaken them—such was the “setting.”
From the developers’ perspective, players awakening the Demon King’s Fragments early only meant that the players hadn’t grown sufficiently; suggesting the Fragments awakened in a weakened state was impossible within the “setting.”
“Sigh… Even that gave me a headache, and now saying they’ll be even stronger than during the 2nd Human-Demon War—it’s insane. Is this the final content or something? There’s no other hell like this!”
Moreover, the Demon King’s Fragments had definitively improved from before.
『During the 2nd Human-Demon War, the resources used by Bluebeard’s monster corps, Ghibrid’s chimera corps, and Pyrot-Cocri’s undead army all came from the Lope continent. And where they currently are… our Lord knows better.』
The eastern part of the New Continent, an area where teleportation doesn’t work.
Although Leeha had been as far as the eastern end, Saur Land, it was hard to say he truly knew the east.
To be precise, even Fernand hadn’t fully explored it yet.
‘If it weren’t for Fernand, we wouldn’t even be at this stage, would we? Discovering Laputa in the sky was a huge luck.’
In short, the route that the “Sacred Alliance” could use in the eastern part of the New Continent is as thin as a silk thread.
And the area where that single silk thread is placed is broader than a football field, even when estimating low.
In this context, only knowing and using a silk thread’s width in such a vast area is tantamount to saying they know nothing.
There, the Demon King’s Fragments would create their army. And it would be based on new monsters that no player had yet identified.
“Is the new war going to involve facing stronger enemies than before, without heroes’ descendants on our side?”
That couldn’t be.
Despite the high level of current active players, future battles would demand even greater strength.
Fortunately, there was a way forward.
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『If a Descendant of a Hero does not remain active for a certain period, their authority can be passed on to someone else. In some jobs, there have already been turnovers within months. It might seem irrelevant to the Musketeer sector, but… Pyro and Chiyou? Aren’t they active? Although they are heading in different directions.』
Did it mean to strip titles granted to those in a state of long-term logout?
Listening to the penalties within the system of Middle Earth, Leeha managed to hold onto some hope.
The Holy Grail, which was aware of the turnover among the Descendants of Heroes, presumably had access to such easily ascertainable information.
『Hmm, do you want us to try and establish contact with them? Let’s first look into those who have recently experienced a turnover. But don’t get your hopes up too much. Who knows how many we can actually reach… Not all of them have the same temperament or circumstances as our lord. I wouldn’t want to hear that you were disappointed because of me.』
‘That’s true’, Leeha thought. Despite being Descendants of Heroes, most users would likely be content with mostly solo play or participating in small groups to which they belonged.
The probability of Leeha being the owner of a city or castle was low. There was also a high possibility that Chiyou or the Demon King’s Fragment’s chaos might not be related to their jobs, and above all, they might not want to get involved in such matters.
The Descendants of Heroes had distinct characteristics that set them apart from ordinary users.
‘Either they are extraordinarily skilled, or…’ they engaged in gameplay in ways so unconventional that they defied imagination. Whatever the case, it was clear that the Descendants of Heroes differed fundamentally from typical users in both disposition and characteristics.
‘If even one comes, that’ll be enough. If I’m a bit greedy, two could be…’
In any case, this presented an opportunity. It was an advantage that could allow recruiting a new ally—a remarkable one currently making waves as a high-ranking or outsider-level ally. Even if just one person stepped forward to handle matters for the “Sacred Alliance”!
Leeha and the other rankers could face battles with more peace of mind.
‘As quickly as possible. As many as possible.’
There was a reason behind Leeha’s urgency. He had exited the official website and entered the global community. One reason for his logout from the Holy Grail was precisely this.
“Title: You Build Middle Earth.”
The global community post had a staggering 7.3 million views. Given that the post had only been up for six hours in real time, many more users likely hadn’t seen it yet because they were busy playing Middle Earth.
Leeha was gritting his teeth as he saw the author of the post.
“Chiyou…”
* * *
Alexander officially opposed both the “Sacred Alliance” and the “Third Faction!”
The “Sacred Alliance” was the largest community encompassing both users and NPCs in Middle Earth.
In other words, Alexander officially defined Chiyou’s forces as a cancerous element of Middle Earth gameplay and advocated their elimination.
Alexander’s broadcast had already been uploaded as a recording on YTube. There was no way Chiyou hadn’t watched it. Now, there would be significant constraints on secretly crossing between the New Continent and the Old Continent.
Securing supplies would be challenging as well. If such circumstances unfolded, Chiyou’s forces would have to wither away.
However, she was not the type of user to wither away. The course of action Chiyou chose was a frontal assault. Leeha couldn’t help but fixate on a portion of the post Chiyou wrote.
She addressed the players bored with the mainstream narrative of the Middle Earth world.
Those frustrated by only the usual players receiving attention consistently.
Those who preferred PK between users rather than fighting NPCs in the game.
Those wanting to test the limits of what could be done in the game.
Invite them all to join them in realizing those dreams.
She argued that such an approach was also a form of gameplay and should not be condemned.
She further stated that what they were doing was merely one of the many ways Middle Earth offered to play, as evidenced by the lack of any system level sanctions.
It wasn’t merely an excuse.
She knew that refuting Alexander’s words with “We are not in league with the Demon King’s forces. We’re not bad!” was something only novices would do.
Instead, directly articulating “why we engage in such gameplay” provoked the dark desires of the Middle Earth’s player base.
Her rhetoric had enough of a politician’s luster to enchant a significant number of users.
‘Dammit, can’t they think on a larger scale…? That’s only relevant while playing on the table. If the table is flipped, everything ends! The game can’t survive in such conditions!’
Since Chiyou’s goal was to dominate the game, the current hegemony would be completely destroyed.
Given that Middle Earth was a game and the majority were ‘ordinary’ players, if a new alternative, on par with Middle Earth, emerged, the regular players would immediately desert it.
Leeha wished the users would think this far.
Of course, there might have been such insightful users. However, when more than half of the comments were inundated with subscription requests, Leeha clutched his head.
The post, which had garnered 7.3 million views, had accumulated about 600,000 comments to date.
“I can’t just leave it like this.”
And this wasn’t the only community in existence.
Surely, Chiyou would gather his followers by every means, and this needed to be stopped from the onset.
Before more than 300,000 potential vampire users or vampire collaborators emerged, even a little.
The problem was the number of users capable of doing this was extremely limited.
“Huuu…”
Leeha steadied his breathing as he organized his thoughts.
He was well aware he was one of those few users.
Some users, resentful of the spotlight on Leeha and other few users, could even lean toward Chiyou.
However, if they succumbed to the fear of such a possibility and let Chiyou roam the internet freely, it would soon become uncontrollable.
“It’s not like I am scared of worms to the point of not making soy sauce.”
Having roughly organized what he wanted to say in a memo, Leeha intertwined his fingers and adjusted his posture.
“Alright. Let’s go.”
The light from the monitor reflected in his eyes. Leeha clicked the writing button. With a ‘thud’ sound, a popup window appeared.
Login is required for this function.
“Huh? Didn’t I log in?”
Leeha hurriedly entered his ID and password. Another ‘thud’ sound accompanied a new popup window.
Unregistered ID.
“Huh? Didn’t I register?”
He still appeared somewhat clumsy.
* * *
While Leeha was writing online, a small commotion was occurring in Gaza City.
Specifically, the commotion was taking place near the Bottleneck smithy.
“Oh! It’s Luger! Luger!”
“Kidd’s there too! The Kidd who annihilated the chimeras!”
“Can you add me as a friend, possibly? I’m level 253 as well and—.”
Boom────────!
“Get lost.”
Luger fired a shot into the sky and continued walking.
The users were momentarily frozen. The delayed-fuse bomb Luger fired exploded three seconds later, raining sparks from the sky.
The fear of really being killed if they blocked his path quickly dominated the surroundings.
“Waaah!”
“R-run! Call the guards, call the guards!”
“But where did Kidd go, I just saw him?”
He might not really shoot. Or he might just as well. He might fire a warning shot. But even with such a shot, there’s a possibility of dying.
If you’d rather not get involved, fleeing is the best strategy!
All the users who were once near the 『War Mercenary』 Luger, infamous for being ‘insane’ and bearing the side nickname of ‘warmonger’, had already disappeared.
“Ha, cockroach-like fools.”
“… Even I thought you might really shoot. What do you think they believed? Avoiding mad dogs roaming the streets is only natural.”
As Luger entered the Bottleneck smithy, Kidd, who had already arrived, muttered.
“What? M-mad dog? Hey, after I paved the way for you!”
The Beard Brothers wanted to chuckle, but they had to quickly turn their heads away when Luger glared at them.
Kidd shook his head at Luger’s words.
“Who gave me a chance to settle? By the time you fired a single shot, I was already here.”
Then, he subtly opened his coat.
Revolver bullets nestled snugly in a speed loader hung densely from the inside of his coat.
As they had met by chance while he was coming to refill, the fully loaded bullets Kidd possessed indicated that he had already completed his ‘supply run’.
“Ugh, enough. Talking to you is only a headache. Old man! Bring over all types of cannonballs!”
“How’s it possible that the more he talks, the shorter his sentences get?”
“Ha-ha, it’s a compliment, a compliment! If those shells we made were useless, we’d have blown this place sky-high already!”
Even as Bottleneck shouted, Luger’s attitude remained unchanged.
The dwarf, already accustomed to this damned rogue, clicked his tongue as he suppressed his anger.
Luger grabbed the shells from Bottleneck and glanced briefly at Kidd.
Kidd was staring blankly at a corner of the forge’s floor.
“What are you doing? Aren’t you leaving?”
“There’s a mark here.”
“A mark?”
Luger paused in gathering the shells and went beside Kidd. A part of the forge’s dirt floor was scuffed, as if someone had rubbed it with a foot.
“Oh, ohhh! If you’ve got everything packed, get out there and get to work! They say all the Demon King’s Fragments have awakened; we don’t have time to dawdle here!”
“Why are you flustered, old man?”
“What? Who? Who’s flustered—?”
When Bottleneck hastily approached to push them aside, it only resulted in more curiosity. While Luger scrutinized Bottleneck’s complexion, Kidd bent closer to the ground, nearing the floor with his face.
“There are letters… traces as if someone started to erase them. Maybe it read… ‘t — day— la— r, el — v— n, lor—…’.”
Kidd perceived the letters in English.
As he examined the half-erased alphabets, he pondered for a moment.
“What does it mean? Who— no… Ha-ha, no need to ask who’s responsible. Judging by the old codger’s flustered reaction, there’s only one person who could’ve doodled here. Isn’t that right?”
Luger chuckled as he stood beside Kidd.
Bottleneck felt guilty for some reason. Although Leeha hadn’t specifically asked to keep it a secret, it was likely significant.
Especially when considering the rivalry among the Three Musketeers!
“Two days later, at eleven, and ‘Lord’. Is that correct?”
“I-I don’t know!”
All Bottleneck could do was evade the question. However, seeing the dwarf turning away, Luger and Kidd nodded.
“Probably attempting to—.”
“Trying to snag something solo again. It’s irritating enough that he hogged all the credit for the Tiamat battle, now he’s got his eyes on…”
“This time… we won’t let it slip.”
Having discovered Leeha’s clues through Kidd’s intuition and Luger’s nose, it had been set that the three would meet here two days later at eleven.
Their eyes sparkled as if they had found new prey. While writing a rebuttal piece directed at Chiyou, Leeha felt his nose itch for some reason.
* * *
“Let’s see then…”
A bespectacled man tidied the scattered documents on his desk.
Although he was busy moving, his confusion seemed to render his efforts inefficacious.
“Should I start with this, or should I tackle that first? Hmm, I feel like I heard something about it then…”
Unable to prioritize his tasks, the disoriented man awkwardly chuckled to himself after talking out loud.
Finally, when he sat back down in his chair and gazed vacantly at his desk, someone knocked on the door.
“Oh, yes!”
— Lord Bernard, a guest has arrived from Fibiel.
“Fibiel? Bishops? But there’s no one scheduled to come.”
—It seems you need to meet them.
“Uh, me? Why? We didn’t have any appointment.”
The man tilted his head in puzzlement.
It was the first time he had heard the security NPC speak in such a way since he began working there.
“Who could it possibly be…?”
—Very well, I will let them in.
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Bernard was about to awkwardly rise from his chair when the office door swung open.
The guard NPC gave a slight nod towards Bernard and ushered in the woman behind him.
Bernard, neither standing nor fully seated, held a pose like a horse rider, observing the newcomer.
The woman regarded Bernard with a bright smile and greeted him.
“Hello, Bernard?”
“Yes, hello? Excuse me, but who might you be… Hehe, I don’t think I know you.”
“Of course, Bernard, you wouldn’t know me. But I know you quite well.”
The woman moved toward Bernard.
She sat across from him, with a dirty table piled with scattered documents between them.
“I’ll excuse myself now. Please, go ahead and talk.”
Confirming the situation, the guard NPC exited the room.
Bernard, not knowing who the woman was, whether a user or NPC, chose to sit down.
He couldn’t even look directly into the eyes of the woman sitting opposite him.
After sneaking glances at her several times, he finally managed to speak.
“For what purpose…”
Bernard stammered, sounding unsure as if he was the guest. The woman smiled at Bernard’s demeanor.
“Oh, I’m late with introductions. I came from the Intelligence Guild under the direct command of the King of Fibiel. Please call me Ju.”
“Ju? Hehe, what a lovely… name.”
The Holy Grail’s Ju.
Bernard responded with an awkward laugh.
Regardless of how he reacted, the female NPC leading the Fibiel Capital’s Intelligence Guild maintained an unbroken expression.
Ju observed Bernard for a moment before her gaze subtly shifted.
Behind Bernard, between the window and the wall, rested a large cross.
She stared at the cross briefly before refocusing her attention on Bernard.
“I understand you have recently become the successor to the hero of the ‘Crusader’ class, so I’ve come to discuss something with you.”
Madam Ju of the Holy Grail traveled to the papal offices of Ezwen for precisely this reason.
To fulfill Leeha’s request, average NPCs simply couldn’t measure up.
It was an event made possible by Leeha and Ju’s mutual relationship beyond the ordinary. Neither Leeha nor Bernard were aware of it yet.
“The hero’s— Ah, that’s right. Yes, that’s what happened. I’ve been oddly lucky.”
The newly selected user as the successor to the ‘Crusader’ class hero.
Bernard, seeming embarrassed by Ju’s praise, spoke in a muted voice.
“Not at all. Without your remarkable achievements and skills, Bernard, it would have been impossible.”
“Oh, hehe. If you say so, there’s some truth in it… even if just barely.”
“So, although it seems unlikely that you, being affiliated with the Ezwen Theocracy, would join Chiyou’s side… could you assist us?”
Cutting through Bernard’s halting words, Ju swiftly got to the point. Fortunately, Bernard didn’t notice her small sigh.
Bernard briefly observed Ju cautiously.
“Who do you mean by ‘us’?”
“To be direct, I meant Ha Leeha.”
Bernard’s eyes widened.
“Ha Leeha? The Exorcism Cardinal and… the Saintess frequently meet with… They’re going to verify the ‘Physical Substantialism’ theory this time, right?”
“Yes, he’s the one who killed Tiamat.”
To a user belonging to the Ezwen Theocracy, Leeha was a well-known figure.
Partly because of Leeha’s own exploits, but also due to his prominent acquaintances, such as Kijung, who now confidently occupied a seat in the ‘Council of Nine Cardinals,’ and Raphaela, famed as the ‘Saintess’.
Bernard’s breathing quickened as he listened to Ju.
“I doubt what kind of help I can offer to someone like him… Heh, hehe. Of course, I also want to verify the mysteries of the ‘Physical Substantialism’, but I am already busy with just my work here—.”
“Please consider it well, and I look forward to your favorable reply.”
As Ju watched Bernard stuttering with his words while glancing around, she eventually rose from her seat.
Leaving a note with ‘Messenger Magic’, directly connecting to herself, on Bernard’s desk, she headed straight for the door.
“Uh, well, yes.”
Even as Ju was leaving, Bernard continued to show a frustrating demeanor.
As soon as Ju exited his office, an assistant NPC from the Intelligence Guild followed closely behind her.
“Were you able to achieve a satisfactory outcome, madam?”
“It’s hopeless, hopeless. I wondered how he got into that position… He’s a complete fool, stumbling over his own words.”
“What?”
“At this rate, it’s embarrassing to show face to Ha Leeha, the lord.”
Thump, thump, thump!
As Ju and the NPC from the Intelligence Guild walked down the corridors of the Vatican, someone who appeared to belong to the Ezwen Theocracy hurriedly rushed into Bernard’s office.
The NPCs paused briefly to observe.
There was the urgent sound of knocking and someone barging in, followed by a brief commotion.
Bang—!
When the door swung open again, Bernard, along with the intruder who had just gone in, dashed out.
Seeing him, Ju quickly adjusted her expression and tried to greet him.
“Oh my, Bernard—”
“Guide me quickly!”
“It’s near the boundary with Kraven— there’s a village nearby too—”
“Not necessary. I’ll take responsibility. I can’t leave such scum alive in my jurisdiction. I’ll report to His Holiness after the fact, so let’s depart immediately.”
Bernard shouted over Ju, ignoring her as he rushed down the hallway like the wind.
As soon as they reached the end of the corridor, they teleported and vanished.
Ju blinked her large eyes in surprise.
The NPC assisting her cleared their throat, prompting Ju to regain her poker face.
“What you mentioned earlier about not being of help to Ha Leeha-nim, it seems you were referring to such a resolute disposition.”
“Firm… no… Who did I just see? Was that really Bernard?”
“Yes, it was, madam.”
“How can a person change so drastically? When he was just speaking with me—and that enormous cross he was carrying on his back…”
It was one of the reasons Ju was astonished while watching Bernard.
Apart from his completely altered expression and voice, the fact that a man with an ordinary build managed to carry a cross as large as himself was astonishing.
There was no question—it was the same ‘thing’ that had been resting against the wall in Bernard’s office.
“Though I haven’t verified those rumors myself, I only noted them in the remarks section of the report…”
Listening to the NPC, Ju lightly clapped her hands.
“When Bernard’s ‘professional nature’ is triggered, his personality changes—that one?”
“Yes.”
“And his job is…”
Bernard, a descendant of the ‘Crusader’ class hero.
To date, he had been a quiet user belonging to the Ezwen Theocracy without any notable traits.
Despite being part of the Ezwen Theocracy, Bernard had chosen the ‘Crusader’, a support DPS and healing hybrid, instead of a healer class. His combat skills were almost non-existent.
He hadn’t even turned off the combat assist system, leveling solely through party play, leaving no room for doubts about his gaming skills.
He had started Middle Earth for research related to religion.
Especially, the difference in doctrines between real-world religions and those within the game.
How do ‘NPCs who do not believe in that religion’ react to various miracles being realized within the game?
If such reactions occurred in reality, what distinguishes those who believe in religion without miracles or believers who think miracles exist?
He had focused on research regarding faith, and he delved deeply into the responses of top-grade AIs following the utilization of big data implemented by “Middle Earth”.
The research results were so outstanding that they were partly adopted in real-world papers. Thus, it was no surprise that he received new authority when the descendant of a previous Crusader hero lost rights due to long-term disconnection.
It was also not surprising that “Middle Earth”, which “understood!”
Bernard’s personality, assigned him a new ‘〈Second Advancement〉’ quest.
Bernard, the descendant of a Crusader-class hero.
At present, after completing the second job advancement, his job was not Crusader.
Jou quietly recited the phrase written in Bernard’s report.
“Bernard, the 〈Inquisitor〉……. Where to next?”
Bernard, the descendant of a Crusader-class hero.
Current job after completing second job advancement: 〈Inquisitor〉
“It’s the fishing village in the southeastern part of Kraven.”
“Ah, that fisherman?”
“Yes, madam.”
“Good. Let’s move quickly. There’s one more person after that guy.”
The two people of the Holy Grail teleported.
Besides the 〈Inquisitor〉, she was recruiting two more people for Leeha.
* * *
Around that time, Leeha was looking at the monitor with a satisfied face.
“Good, good.”
The comments briefly exposing Chiyou’s misdeeds, as well as the rebuttal to Chiyou’s 〈Third Faction〉 recruitment posting, were recording explosive views.
However, Leeha’s satisfaction was not 100% compared to the views and comments.
A significant portion of the reactions was not much different than when seeing a celebrity. ‘Wow, the hero of the Tiamat War appeared in such a place!’
This was not what Leeha wanted.
‘But if these continue……. people who truly sympathize with my words will increase. It’s something inevitable.’
Nevertheless, it was a time to cherish each response.
Even while Leeha was struggling to write a long post, Chiyou’s post was gaining viewership and comments on a level unreachable by Leeha’s.
“As expected, the dark attribute job classes……. Damn, I don’t think I can catch them.”
As originally heard from the GM, a significant number of the users joining the Demon King’s army belonged to the dark attribute job classes.
“Middle Earth” had set the system to favor those job classes, so it was only natural.
But why hadn’t they crossed over until now?
The 〈Sacred Alliance〉 dealt swiftly enough that the Demon King’s army didn’t have time to recruit users. Furthermore, Chiyou had a substantial information network and underground forces constructed.
They didn’t need the information brought by new users, so even as Bluebeard, he didn’t recommend such activities, and Chiyou also moved with a minimal number of users due to security concerns.
However, Chiyou had to seek power reinforcement, and now that Bluebeard also wanted vivid information from the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 side?
It was as clear as day that the number of defections from the dark attribute job classes would gradually increase.
Just as the necromancer Faust went over to the Demon King’s army, Leeha pondered which other job class users and how many might defect.
“After all, this is the best I can do right now. I can only hope that players will recognize that playing to protect Middle Earth is not outdated. Still, it’s fortunate to have someone like this.”
Indeed, the rebuttal comment against Chiyou’s post by Leeha had been augmented with content about the game’s existential crisis.
Woo-hoo~~☆ Do these guys want to cross over to vampires and ruin the game ww But super lucky! As more folks give up being human, more prey for me — get it all!
“Hm, hmmm…… I’m not sure exactly what this means……. But crossing over to being a vampire definitely increases disadvantages. It’s recognized as hunting, not PK. Yet it’s amazing that they even realize Middle Earth would be doomed if users defected. Why is the wording like this? Is this trendy on the internet these days?”
Thanks to the short yet impactful comment, the lengthy (?) rebuttal written by Leeha gained more traction, and it was only right he felt grateful.
The commenter’s nickname was So_EZ. Leeha shrugged momentarily but soon shook his head.
“No way……. No matter what, it couldn’t be Lee Jiwon. Hm, ultimately, what does it matter whether it’s Lee Jiwon or not? I’m busy to death anyway.”
Leeha checked the time. The appointment time with Bottleneck was approaching.
“Cutting it close for a shower too.”
Only after refreshing his body sullied by the lengthy sessions in Middle Earth did Leeha re-enter the world of Middle Earth.
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There was no need to visit anywhere else.
The place Leeha headed straight to was the forge of Bottleneck.
Using the skill 〈Melding Breath〉, Leeha intended to approach stealthily and enter Bottleneck’s smithy, but he suddenly realized there was no crowd around the forge.
“Coming at ten when it’s supposed to be until eleven, always such an unlikable bastard.”
“This was expected to some extent. So… what are you planning to do?”
Leeha noticed two people seated on chairs they had brought beside Bottleneck.
“Luger? Kidd?”
Leeha looked at Bottleneck with a questioning face, but the legendary blacksmith did not even make eye contact and just kept pounding away with his hammer.
Regular users were scattered under control, and Luger and Kidd were sitting proudly, with Bottleneck avoiding Leeha’s gaze. Combining all these factors, Leeha immediately understood the situation.
“I’m just here to get my bullets, Bottleneck-ssi! Where are my magazines—.”
Thud.
Luger hit the ground with his 〈Cobalt Blue Python〉.
In the moment Kidd’s coat fluttered, 〈Crimson Geckos〉 were already attached to Kidd’s arms and legs.
“You better speak quickly. You know neither I nor this guy have much patience.”
“If you want to test Gecko’s new form… you are welcome anytime.”
Rather than calming down, Luger and Kidd appeared even more energized.
Not matters; after the ‘Battle with Tiamat,’ anything Leeha did signified the possibility of a new evolution, hence their fixation on him grew.
“Heh, or we could blow up this forge and kidnap this old man. Whatever you are planning, it clearly requires a blacksmith— and for craftsmanship aspects, it would be hard to find a better dwarf than this old chap.”
“You bastard! Treating someone like an object!”
Though Bottleneck yelled at Luger’s provocation, Luger ignored it completely.
Looking at their serious expressions, Leeha realized he had to make a choice.
“Damn it… always like bloodhounds.”
Although he was speaking as if he had no other choice, Leeha felt somewhat relieved.
In the current situation, losing even one person’s combat power would be regrettable. Besides, jumping to the next stage with items obtained through Kijung wouldn’t be much fun either.
‘It’s essential to have these guys around.’
Friends and rivals. Or rivals and friends.
The growth of Kidd and Luger was potentially directly linked to Leeha’s growth as well.
Faced with his inseparable comrades in Middle Earth, Leeha decided to reveal his intentions about what he planned to do.
Turning to the eager-looking Kidd and Luger, Leeha carefully showed them the Black Bass.
“It’s finally over.”
“Huh? What exactly is over?”
“Is your Middle Earth life over?”
“Geez, never lose an argument, do you? Just listen! You both awakened your weapons, right? The charging rate of the 〈Black Bass〉, already an Ego Gun — that final seal quest is…”
He then opened his bag and took out a small bottle, placing it beside the Black Bass.
In that instant, the bolt of the Black Bass glowed momentarily.
“Now it’s finally ended. The 『Complete Unsealing』 moment of the Black Bass, which even Miss Elizabeth could not clear.”
〈Legendary Black Bass Pulsating with Life Force (1st Enhancement—Lava)〉
(Non-tradable)
Additional Effect—3: Charge Rate: 75%
(The charge rate does not decrease.)
Additional Effect—4: Direct Strikes to the Essence of the Target
(Ignores all evasive measures like clones, astral bodies, and life transfers.)
Additional Description—3: The awakened ego has consumed enough blood. The blood of countless life forms forms the veins connecting its ego. The ego of the Black Bass, having tasted the blood of various beings, desires to devour those beyond. Only two challenges remain. Only the blood of those without life forms will rewrite its legend.
Additional Effect―5: Strike through the physical protective gear of the target
(Ignores physical defenses like shields, armor, helmets, etc.)
Leeha killed Onyx, who was absorbing Tiamat’s Heart.
The activation effect of the “White Reaper” fortunately coincided with Black Bass’s characteristics, and the Queen of the Chromatic Dragon, who was born in the Demon realm and sealed in the underworld, seemed to have given Leeha a parting gift.
At this moment, everything related to the Demon realm was complete, and the current charge rate was exactly 75%. The remaining 25% related to the divine needed to be fulfilled.
And now, here, Leeha had the item that could sufficiently satisfy the remaining 25% charge.
―Hehe… The scent of divine blood is strong.
“It has to be. This is it, after all. Oh, by the way, is that all you can sense, black? There’s nothing else around?”
Leeha spoke as he walked slowly towards Luger. Though Luger flinched for a moment, he did not evade.
Perhaps because he had an inkling of what Leeha was up to, Luger extended his Cobalt Blue Python slightly towards Leeha.
The cobalt blue-colored cannon stood upright, pressing against the ground with its stock.
Leeha briefly examined the structure of the Cobalt Blue Python and then brought Black Bass’s bolt to the Cobalt Blue Python’s bolt assembly.
Luger did not avoid Leeha’s actions. The faint glow of light from the Cobalt Blue Python’s bolt was visible to Kidd.
When the two Ego Guns finally recognized each other, different voices of the Ego Guns echoed in the minds of Leeha and Luger.
―This scent… I see. The Cobalt Blue Python, is it?―
―Sssaa… Black Ba-aaass…―
The voices were only audible to the gun’s holder, the owner of the rifle, so it was impossible to determine exactly how each gun referred to the other.
“Hah, pretending not to know.”
“It was a gun that wouldn’t acknowledge the existence of another Ego Gun, and yet…”
However, Kidd was able to grasp enough from Leeha’s words towards Black Bass and Luger’s words towards the Cobalt Blue Python.
It was not surprising when Kidd, who had been waiting, stood up and approached the two who were now almost holding their guns against each other.
―Krrkk! The silk python! And Beth!―
―A tyrant! A tyrant! This thing is going to consume us all!―
―Shut up! Beth and us live in different places; how could that even happen?―
―Now we wouldn’t lose. Right now, it’s ‘within our range’.―
―We’d be better off waiting for them to take each other down! Yes, that’s better!―
“Ugh, ugh…”
The sudden flood of different voices in his head made Kidd shake his head for a moment.
Of course, it wasn’t just the “Crimson Geckos” that recognized Black Bass and the Cobalt Blue Python.
Leeha and Luger’s guns naturally identified Kidd’s smaller weapons attached to his limbs, and they too heard the voices of their own weapons evaluating Crimson Geckos.
The three of them silently observed each other for a moment.
There was no time for such things when they were battling Tiamat.
Each was too busy fighting their own battles, and having their guns awaken was a secret they were aware of yet pretended not to know.
Sharing and openly revealing each other’s secrets like this was something they all did without hesitation.
This fact itself demonstrated the strengthened bond of the Three Musketeers’ friendship since their Eastern expedition on the new continent.
“I’m not sure what you all might think… But at least one thing seems certain.”
Leeha was the first to speak.
Kidd, observing Leeha’s mysterious expression, sensed what Leeha was about to say.
“Indeed. If we have to listen to the babble of six guns―”
“It would burst our heads.”
The Three Musketeers burst into laughter simultaneously.
It had been so long since they had laughed so heartily together. The Three Musketeers had never laughed like this before, at least not while they were together, so the Beard Brothers had dumbfounded expressions.
However, Bottleneck reacted slightly differently.
“What’s wrong with these guys? Are these younger ones going senile ahead of me?”
The voice seemed intent on scolding the Three Musketeers, but it couldn’t entirely hide the laughter sneaking through his expression and tone.
Quite a while had passed, during which Bottleneck continued to let out a laugh, as if he couldn’t believe the absurdity, following the Three Musketeers’ laughter.
Somehow, he found himself getting choked up.
“Damn it, ahem, ever since Elizabeth and Brown left, ahem! I never thought I’d see a situation like this again. Beard Brothers! Bring me a handkerchief! A new one!”
“Oh dear, our Bottleneck ajussi is at it with the tears and snot again.”
“Wh-Who’s crying with tears and snot!? Don’t talk nonsense. People might misunderstand, damn it.”
Leeha, while grumbling, observed the dwarf wiping his face with his back turned.
Leeha, as well as Kidd and Luger, had already realized the affection Bottleneck had for the current Three Musketeers.
Connecting the past Three Musketeers with the present, as they were literally the ‘successors’ and next generation of sorts, often prompted Bottleneck to recall the past.
While Bottleneck was calming down, Luger looked up at Leeha with curiosity.
“So, that’s why we needed this old-timer. Perfectly clearing the quest with a 『Legendary』 blacksmith present— that must’ve been necessary.”
“Anyway, his intuition is impressive. But, in a way, it makes sense, doesn’t it?”
“Of course. The fact that our currently 『Legendary』 guns haven’t had a complete unsealing yet means—”
“It can only lead us to think that once this sealing is fully lifted, they’ll possibly reach the 〈next stage〉.”
Leeha playfully raised his eyebrows with a mischievous expression.
Kidd, observing Leeha, scoffed, but his face, as he lifted his hat, was bright.
『Myth-Class Firearms』
At least up to this point, they didn’t particularly envy Leeha.
This was partly because they acknowledged that it was a stage neither of them had reached yet, but also because Leeha’s success directly translated to their own success.
In other words, wasn’t this a ‘guaranteed adventure of the future’?
With the uncertainty surrounding the future of 〈Cobalt Blue Python〉 and 〈Crimson Geckos〉, since they had a guaranteed future of one day hitting Myth rank, it only motivated them to strive harder!
To give up such benefits for petty pride or paltry competitiveness?
The Luger and Kidd from their first encounter might have thought differently, but those who had come to fully recognize Leeha would never consider such a decision.
Identifying the potential for advancement to Myth rank was among their interests.
And if they truly reached Myth rank…
“And if that happens…”
Leeha glanced between Luger and Kidd.
He thought that both of them were probably sharing the same thought as he was.
“It would be worth facing up against 《Arcane Sniper》.”
Kidd and Luger did not betray Leeha’s expectation, as seen from the soft smiles that spread across their lips.
* * *
“Bottleneck-ssi, it’s not so much an enhancement, but… you can at least check the status later, right?”
“Uh, huh! Of course! But is it at a point where I need to check its status?”
“Just in case.”
At Leeha’s sincere tone, Bottleneck swallowed dryly.
The Beard Brothers looked at Leeha and Bottleneck, as well as Kidd and Luger, before locking the blacksmith’s door.
Kidd and Luger had now risen from their seats.
Leeha approached the table next to them, tidied it, and gently placed the Black Bass atop it.
“Hehe, it feels like preparing for surgery. Patient Black Bass, are you ready?”
—Hehe… Are you asking me, Bearer? I can consume anything. I can swallow any blood.
“Yes, yes, of course. That phase of yours must really go away eventually.”
—What…
Leeha withdrew his hand from Black Bass and controlled his breath.
He knew it was a simple task and there wasn’t much he could do himself, but he was inevitably tense.
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The freezing expressions of Kidd and Luger, alongside Leeha’s, glanced at Black Bass, making him even more tense.
From the Cobalt Blue Python and Crimson Geckos, a faint light kept flickering.
Leeha paused to gaze at those firearms. What could they possibly be saying at this moment?
‘Could they also be having some kind of adolescent delusion? Haha.’
Thinking about how those mighty barrels and sleek revolvers spoke in the same voice and tone as Black Bass, Leeha’s tension oddly began to ease.
“Alright, are you all ready?”
Leeha adjusted Black Bass’s bolt to face the sky, and then opened the bottle cap received from Kijung.
Even with just the ‘pop’ sound of the lid opening, the inside of the forge somehow felt cozier.
There was something that enveloped the entire space even in the absence of any scent.
A comfort of a different kind from a smell.
‘I don’t need much anyway. Just in case Kidd or Luger might need it later—’
He decided to use it sparingly.
With utmost care, Leeha tilted the bottle.
The little remaining liquid in the already small bottle slid towards the opening with a somewhat thick feeling.
With a single drop resting at the opening, Leeha leveled the bottle horizontally again.
The meticulousness that seemed almost like a religious ritual, coupled with the users’ awareness of the task’s importance, heightened the tension within the space.
Kidd’s shaky breathing, Luger’s complete stillness, and even Leeha’s unblinking eyes.
The focused concentration of the three people coalesced in a single moment.
…… Drip.
A single drop of holy water containing Ahlo’s blood fell onto the bolt of Black Bass.
Leeha fixed his gaze on Black Bass. However, nothing had occurred yet.
Though only a few seconds had passed, it was a silence that made onlookers fidgety and restless. The Three Musketeers could not just stand by and watch.
“It might not react because the amount is too little.”
“That stingy guy! Just pour it quickly!”
Though Kidd and Luger urged Leeha, he had already sealed the bottle with its cap and placed it inside his bag.
His intuition told him he should not use up an item that Kijung said could never be obtained again.
“This is so precious. Hey, Bottleneck! Why don’t you check the status—”
Leeha tried to have Bottleneck detect any changes, but before he could finish speaking, a voice resonated in everyone’s minds.
―Aaaah…….―
“Hmm?”
“Is this— is this Black Bass’s voice……?”
“Could the Ego Gun affect individuals other than its user!”
Kidd, Luger, and Bottleneck were startled by the unfamiliar voice.
Observing Bottleneck’s nervous reaction gave Leeha the confidence that things were progressing properly.
“It doesn’t seem to affect only individuals.”
“―What!?”
Not just individuals, as the Cobalt Blue Python and Crimson Geckos that were emitting light were also being influenced by Black Bass.
“Something’s…… coming.”
“Damn, the Python is howling—.”
“Coming? Howling? What the—.”
─────────────…….
Leeha could no longer inquire from Kidd and Luger. A flash radiated from the bolt of Black Bass.
“…… What is this?”
“What— boss!? Boss!”
The Beard Brothers were staring blankly near the table.
Leeha, as well as Kidd, Luger, their weapons, and even Bottleneck had disappeared.
Leeha had been bewildered.
He could not discern whether Kidd, Luger, Bottleneck, or others were beside him. More importantly, Leeha could not even see his own body.
When he tried to move his hands or feet, only the ‘feeling’ of movement was transmitted to him.
“What’s going on? What is this?”
Speaking felt the same way.
In his head, it seemed as though he could hear a voice. He also experienced the sensation of moving his lips and air leaving his mouth.
Yet, no sound resonated.
It was the same feeling as speaking with ears tightly covered.
Though it was a situation that could cause considerable confusion, fortunately, Leeha had experienced a similar state before.
Hadn’t it been just like this when he used the 『Melding Breath』?
“No, if that’s the case now… did something change when Black Bass absorbed the divine’s blood? Movement? Teleport?”
Even in an environment sufficient to cause panic, Leeha maintained his composure.
Incidents involving the sudden emergence of light and the forced control of his body were already familiar.
“When I reenacted the memories of Arcane Sniper… It’s similar to back then.”
This was likely close to experiencing someone else’s ‘memory,’ and then only one thing remained.
“Black Bass.”
Leeha tried to call Black Bass, but it felt as though his sound didn’t reach anywhere.
There was no response from Black Bass either.
Then, Leeha abruptly closed his mouth.
In a situation where he was unsure whether he was floating or standing, something came into Leeha’s view.
There was a jet-black mass.
It appeared to possess a shape, yet Leeha could not identify that form.
At a glance, it seemed like a human.
However, the continuously changing, living-like, undulating, dark black substance could not be called a human.
It appeared to be moving somewhere, and Leeha observed its journey.
More precisely, as the black mass moved, Leeha’s gaze naturally followed.
“What is this?”
Looking at the black mass that entered his view, Leeha felt a strange sensation.
It was definitely close to a negative emotion, but he couldn’t clearly distinguish whether it was discomfort or disgust.
The thought that he should look away persisted, yet he couldn’t avert his gaze.
That was because Leeha himself couldn’t control his line of sight. Almost akin to being forced into a nightmare, Leeha observed the black mass as it moved.
A short while later, the black mass halted its movement.
Leeha couldn’t clearly perceive any surrounding features he could deem as ‘background.’
Something rose tall like a mountain, yet seemed too small compared to the ‘black thing.’
Something flowed long enough to connect from one end of Leeha’s vision to the other, perhaps resembling a river. However, compared to the ‘black thing’, it felt infinitesimally small.
『With this…….』
Leeha flinched at the moment.
What echoed in his mind was undoubtedly a voice. Yet, it wasn’t the voice of Black Bass or any other users he knew.
By the time he realized the voice came from the ‘black thing,’ it had already reached the ‘relatively’ thin stream, which he assumed was the river.
There was no sudden flash of light.
However, Leeha could definitely perceive it.
When it withdrew what could be considered a ‘hand’ from the river, the alien object placed upon it was clearly visible.
Despite being the same shade of black, it was distinguishable by its outline, as well as some reddish elements.
『Seven forces… My avatars…….』
Seven forces? Avatars?
Leeha focused on the voice of the black entity.
The foreign lumps placed on its hand gave Leeha a strange sense of familiarity. As he observed them, he thought, “Where have I seen something like that before? What is it—hmm?”
While studying the black entity’s hand, Leeha’s gaze shifted to the river where the black entity had immersed its hand.
“Oh, oh-oh-oh?!”
Leeha’s gaze narrowed onto the river as if being drawn in.
Only just then did he realize that it was an actual flowing river.
It felt like plummeting from a high altitude straight to the ground in an instant!
Even though he had no equipment to safeguard himself and was constrained from even shielding his face with his hands!
“Wait! No matter—no matter if it’s a game, this is bad for my mental health!”
It wasn’t skydiving from an altitude of 10,000 meters; he was diving straight into the river?
Even though he would die from the fall, the impact of hitting the water, even in a dead state, would be unimaginable.
“Aaahhhh!”
…
Without even having the chance to scream, Leeha plunged straight into the river.
Of course, since it was only his viewpoint that had shifted, there was no shock. Without even the sound of breaking the surface, he observed something underwater.
“This is… it’s definitely a river. And those things are—”
The number of fish floating belly-up was beyond counting. All kinds of aquatic life, aside from the fish, were utterly dead. Leeha couldn’t understand why it happened, but he could express it.
“The river is dead.”
Nothing, not even microorganisms, could have survived.
The moment the black entity created ‘something’ here, the entire river died.
Though it was still flowing and not dried up, within the doomed current of the river, Leeha saw something.
Forming slowly at the riverbed was something pitch-black.
As the pitch-black entity gradually took shape, Leeha understood.
“I see…”
Why he had seen this vision as soon as he touched the Black Bass. What this vision signified.
What this black form that had killed the river was.
Moreover, what was emerging at the riverbed now.
Leeha collected his thoughts.
―Ha ha ha… indeed.―
At that moment, Black Bass’s voice resonated.
To be precise, it was as if a flash occurred and an event took place simultaneously within the newly formed pitch-black shape in Leeha’s field of vision, now located at the riverbed.
Leeha spoke.
“Black, you were created together with the 《Arcane Bullet》.”
The entity that killed this river was the Devil.
It likely depicted a time when God and the Devil still remained on Middle Earth.
The Devil had created their power here.
Why had the dark elemental spirits been so enraged upon sensing the form of Black Bass?
Why had they associated it with Devil instantly?
They had known.
Even if the specifics were unclear, they had clearly felt the connection to the origin and birth of Black Bass.
In the dwelling where the Devil lingered, dark elemental spirits were born.
In that case, could it have been that nothing happened at the spot where the mage used their power to create the 《Arcane Bullet》?
“No, to be precise… it formed in the place where the Arcane Bullet was created.”
If that power had leaked out and pervaded the surroundings, an evident effect would have been unavoidable.
Why was Black Bass sealed away?
Why was there guidance against unleashing all its power?
As Leeha spoke, another change occurred in his field of vision.
The specific form assembled on the riverbed was vibrating.
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‘Vibration?’
It was vibrating with a very short and rapid cycle.
Watching the trembling object, Leeha felt he could almost discern a specific emotion.
‘It is in distress. Black!’
Leeha attempted to call Black Bass, just in case, but there was no response.
He thought of trying again but soon dismissed the idea. After all, this was just a ‘reconstructed memory.’
He assumed that since it wasn’t a current anguish, it probably wasn’t anything serious.
‘But… it’s certain. That is pain.’
Humans cannot comprehend the emotions of animals.
They can only infer from their reactions and states.
The state in which humans best infer emotions is through suffering caused by pain.
In this perspective, Leeha was convinced that what he presumed to be Black Bass was in distress. As the flow of emotion became more evident, the vibration gradually intensified.
Moreover, it was taking on a much clearer form than before.
Therefore, Leeha was bewildered. Despite being able to almost recognize its appearance, there was one reason he remained confused.
‘This isn’t Black Bass?’
He would definitely recognize his own rifle.
It was not the musket form before using the SASR transformation skill.
Nor was it the current form he was using. Rather, what was visible to Leeha now was similar to the type of rifle “Arcane Sniper” used.
Was it the very gun Kyle currently used?
‘No, it’s not the same as the gun Arcane Sniper uses—it’s definitely different. This is a form I’ve never seen before!’
Leeha shook his head. Since the time he spent with Elizabeth, he’d seen it so often, it would be impossible not to recognize it.
It was not that gun.
So, what was this completely unfamiliar rifle?
‘Ah, the vibration stopped.’
The gun that had been trembling ceased its vibration. Only then did Leeha realize that this must indeed be something he had never seen before.
It was actually a gun he had never seen.
The gun, having ceased its vibration, began to conceal itself again in darkness. But the important thing was not that it was hiding its form.
What mattered was that the gun, which began to be enveloped by something black, was starting to split into ‘three parts.’ That was what was important.
‘Ah!’
Two of the three divided masses suddenly surged upwards.
The sight of those from the riverbed piercing through the surface was exhilarating in a way.
After they disappeared, the remaining mass began to gradually take shape as if an unseen hand was shaping clay.
When it finally became a form very familiar to Leeha, Black Bass spoke.
―My name is Black Bass… the oldest consciousness.―
The bold voice of Black Bass echoed with each click of the bolt.
Leeha felt like smiling for some reason. Because he began to comprehend what Black Bass had said in the past.
“So, the greatest… Indeed. So that’s why― that’s why you said what you said back then?”
―Keke… What do you mean, Bearer?―
“I once asked if there were any ego weapons besides you, black. Since you were the first ego weapon to develop a consciousness, you wouldn’t know if there were others. Hang on. By that logic… does that mean Arcane Bullet’s gun can’t be considered an ego weapon? Hmm, indeed that Zamiel seemed like a complete life form—”
Leeha asked.
Black Bass did not respond. When Leeha thought that silence was an agreement, another question arose in him.
“No, wait. But earlier, wasn’t there those two masses that detached? What were they—”
―I could not handle them.―
“Hmm?”
―What you are seeing is the compression of time over several hundred years… For an unfathomably long time, I had to forcibly assimilate it in order to survive. I had to consume everything against my will to live. In that arduous time, I suffered continuously, over and over.―
“Ah, is this video……”
Had hundreds of years really been fast-forwarding?
Indeed, the river seen through Leeha’s gaze was different from just a moment ago. The creatures that had turned the boat upside down were already gone.
—I had no choice but to admit it. Admitting I couldn’t fully bear that power, I regurgitated what I had swallowed. With the vow that no matter what happens in the future… forever… I would never again spit out what I consume.—
Black Bass paused for a moment. Leeha understood.
Unlike the Arcane Bulet directly handled by the Devil, Black Bass which had been formed from the remnants of Arcane Bullet couldn’t contain all the power.
Thus, Black Bass, an Ego Weapon already possessing its own will, had made a decision on its own!
And that decision led to the current outcome.
“A division of attributes… Then the two masses that went beyond the river—?”
—Haha… Do you want to see?—
────────────────!
The shift in perspective happened in an instant.
Leeha’s view, which until just now was in the turbulent river, was suddenly positioned in a dense rainforest.
In the isolated forest, a black mass was writhing while a silken python was slithering toward it.
The moment the blue-streaked silken python approached the black mass, Leeha’s view flipped again.
Only the golden sand of the desert was visible, with a black mass rippling in its center.
Leeha inexplicably felt a pleased smile form.
Near the black mass, a few white geckos were scurrying rapidly.
They weren’t purely white, of course.
The geckos had a fundamentally white base with strikingly red patterns scattered across their bodies.
They came to be known as the “Cobalt Blue Python” and “Crimson Geckos.”
Just like the giant fish that had overturned bore the attribute of 『Accuracy』 and was named ‘Black Bass’, the masses were named beside the silken python and the geckos.
This was why the Three Musketeers’ holdings, different yet somehow similar, were related. They were all weapons birthed from the same origin.
Leeha pondered another question at that moment.
Why 『Accuracy』?
“Then why… if the attribute was deliberately removed, it implies that Black chose 『Accuracy』.”
—Didn’t I say I suffered for so long that I couldn’t remember it? Hahaha, in that torment, I focused on only one thing. Revenge against the existence that caused me such pain. I must ‘strike’ it. Like a snake devouring its own tail, my obsession, with the determination to devour my creator, led me to acquire the power of 『Accuracy』.—
“I see… Then, what will you do now…”
—Until now, I deemed it impossible. Even if I unleash all my buried power, I thought I couldn’t consume my original form.—
Leeha pondered while listening to Black Bass.
Black Bass had mentioned devouring its creator. It had thought it couldn’t consume its original form.
Those two are the same thing.
“…… Then now? Can you devour your creator, your original form?”
Was that possible?
—I am different from my past self. Even in the past, neither I nor my original form consumed what you gave me, Bearer.—
“Divine blood?”
—Yes.—
Even the Devil, and certainly not Arcane Bullet, had ever absorbed it. The blood of God.
Even Black Bass’s ‘original form’, Arcane Bullet, had never absorbed divine blood. After all, why were the seven rounds of Arcane Bullet created to begin with?
Hadn’t a being presumed to be the Devil created the ‘seven forces’ and left? If that was the ‘original form’ of Arcane Bullet?
‘A conflict between God and the Devil. A potent force to break what the other had designated with the power they created.’
The sole condition was that they wouldn’t target each other.
At least, the myth Leeha heard in the Dark Elf village told the story that way.
If that story held truth?
‘Arcane Bullet, created by the Devil, has never touched a god!’
Even the force capable of obliterating everything, including Arcane Bullet, had never touched God.
However, what about Black Bass?
Thanks to the help of his companions, Leeha managed to obtain it. And he infused it into Black Bass.
Even though the Arcane Bullet was created with the will of the Devil, while Black Bass was made without the Devil’s will, merely from remnants… In terms of absorbing the blood of God, it was actually superior to Arcane Bullet, being the only existing entity and rifle of its kind at present!
― Bearer, Ha Leeha. ―
“Uh, what?”
As Leeha was trying to organize his thoughts amidst his surprise, Black Bass’s voice echoed again. The difference this time was that light began to spread across his field of vision.
It was as if light was leaking through holes in a sheet of paper.
The light, so bright that it encroached upon all the surrounding scenery and shapes, eventually made it so that Leeha could see nothing at all.
At that moment, Black Bass’s voice was heard.
― I thank you. Therefore, I must ask once more. ―
“… What?”
― Will you join me? Consuming my origin, my creator, will be no easy task. You might end up cursed with eternal immortality or become the remnants of a soul unable to die. ―
Leeha looked at Black Bass, floating in front of him.
The sensation of meeting eyes with a rifle was quite unfamiliar, but at the very least, he could feel that Black Bass was entirely focused on him.
‘The origin ultimately is Arcane Bullet. The creator is…’
The Devil himself.
But how could he fight against the Devil?
With no opponent to fight in this world, how could a battle be waged?
As he pondered this, a part of the image he had seen a moment ago came to mind.
The strength of Arcane Bullet, the seven things that the Devil had carefully placed on his hand, departing. There was certainly something else on his hand, three of them to be exact.
‘That reddish thing—wait a minute. Could it possibly be!?’
〈Demon King’s Fragment〉?
Did he not just create Arcane Bullet here but also the Demon King’s Fragment?
‘No, the Demon King’s Fragment wasn’t created. It was a piece torn from his avatar and main entity! Yes! That interpretation is correct given the timeline!’
As Leeha himself recalled, it was now before the mythical battle between God and the Devil was to occur.
Through a wager with God, the Devil eventually used his final, seventh power to annihilate himself, and God, who could not commit suicide, acknowledged defeat and sealed himself.
Once the battle started, it could never be undone. From the Devil itself, this alluded to near extinction.
And after that?
Leeha already knew the flow of the world setting of Middle Earth. Before his wager with God, the Devil hid fragments of himself in various places.
‘So, at the time before the confrontation, the Demon King’s Fragments had to have already been completed. And that means…’
It implied that they were created right here, where Arcane Bullet was made.
Then what about Black Bass?
‘It wasn’t just remnants of Arcane Bullet—could it be?’
Leeha’s eyes widened. If what he suspected was correct… there was nothing more to contemplate.
It would be the result Leeha desired the most.
It would also be the result desired by the sentient rifle that he favored most.
“Black, I will join you. Together with you… I will eliminate your origin and creator.”
Leeha stated plainly. Black Bass shone brightly.
― I acknowledge you. ―
“Great. Then now fully unsealed, hehe, 『God―.”
― Then I shall commence the trial. ―
“What?”
As soon as he finished speaking, a quest window appeared before Leeha’s eyes.
TL’s Corner:
LOL, Leeha can’t catch a break.
I will be changing Bearer to Bearer. “각인자” (刻印者) translates to Engraver,Imprinter, or “Bearer of the Mark”.
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『Escape from the Abyss』
Description: “The fact that you provided me with a new and fresh blood, one that no one else could procure, indicates that you possess remarkable abilities as a Bearer.
However, I must admit that my own power is undeniably infused in that task’s execution. Hehehe… I am curious to witness your true strength. Do you possess the courage and will to crawl out of the abyss with your bare hands? Are you prepared to walk a path far more perilous than this frivolous test? Thus… I shall face you directly!”
Black Bass sought to establish a perfect trust relationship with the person handling it. It anthropomorphized itself in this world of illusion to try and kill you.
Before anything else, you must eliminate the ‘Anthropomorphized Black Bass’. However, anticipate dangers far beyond predictable realms in a world before the continent’s division.
Objective: Eliminate the ‘Anthropomorphized Black Bass’.
Reward: ?
Condition for Failure: Death
Upon Failure: Current usage of Black Bass
Do you accept?
“… Simple. But isn’t it a bit much to say that your power is included in this, black?”
What exactly did you do!
Leeha felt a flash of anger but did not voice it.
The truth was that as a Musketeer, a job with relatively few skills, he had overcome difficult moments using the skills attached to Black Bass.
Skills such as ‘Mana Clairvoyance’, the best stealth skill ‘Camouflage’, the ‘Mana Vaporizing Shot’ that easily neutralized enemies, and others like ‘Multi-Warhead Shot’ or ‘Ghost in the Shell’.
‘It was the same when capturing Toon… and when blowing off Chiyou’s head. Those skills were indispensable.’
However, this quest appeared to limit the use of those skills.
But Black Bass’s skills were not Leeha’s only assets.
If there were no penalties attached to the use of various spirit skills, wouldn’t it be doable?
“So if I defeat you when you’ve turned into a human, you’ll acknowledge me?”
―Indeed. Undoubtedly, the Bearer would become a user fitting my power.―
“Damn, already calling me ‘Bearer’… And one more condition must be… It means death by not only you, black, but all monsters, right?”
Leeha cautiously confirmed.
It had been described in the quest’s explanation.
‘This is a world before the continent split.’
Back when God and the Devil still remained in Middle Earth, essentially like a primordial era.
Leeha assumed there would undoubtedly be ferocious monsters swarming.
‘That must be the trap. Hehe, with all the time I’ve spent in Middle Earth, I wouldn’t fall for such a thing.’
Thus, the quest failure condition must be death in general, not just death by Black Bass.
Black Bass confirmed Leeha’s confident voice.
―Jellypong’s protection is also prohibited.―
“Well, right. It’s hardly a skill anyway. Okay, I agree. And―.”
Swooosh!
“Wha…?”
Something suddenly popped up beside Leeha as he negotiated quest particulars with Black Bass.
Though surprised, Leeha noticed they too were looking at him with startled eyes.
“Hmm? Why did you suddenly appear here…?”
“What? Leeha?”
“Kidd? Luger? Where were you?”
Kidd and Luger had been sucked into this place alongside Leeha. They silently shifted their gazes between him and Black Bass.
Black Bass’s bolt flickered intermittently.
―Hehehe… The Cobalt Blue Python and crimson geckos remain incomplete. Their users too are unprepared.―
“What- Ah. Ahhh, couldn’t they charge something like their completion rates?”
At Leeha’s words, Luger and Kidd showed bitter expressions. This confirmed that Leeha had progressed rapidly.
Just as Leeha was about to tease them, Black Bass spoke.
―Yet they have acknowledged their own Bearers.―
“Wha… Huh? How!? You said they didn’t reach 100% charge!”
Leeha understood Black Bass’s words in an instant.
Even if they hadn’t fully met the charge rate that corresponded to Black Bass, the recognition of Kidd and Luger by Crimson Geckos and Cobalt Blue Pythons was significant!
This stance of recognizing and permitting passage through the quest was starkly different compared to Black Bass!
“It’s unfair! Why just me―.”
“Well, isn’t it the bond of someone who cherishes their rifle?”
“Hmph, you just got lucky and increased your absorption rate quickly. Isn’t Black Bass a sniper rifle? How can a sniper not even handle a sniper rifle properly yet?”
“What? That’s not true! I’m already….”
―If that’s the case, then I’ll heed the words of the Cobalt Blue Python and the Crimson Geckos. To devour everything, the cooperation of those who have separated from me is essential. Hehe… What will you do, the one marked by them? Will you take the test with Ha Leeha?―
Leeha looked at Black Bass with a resentful gaze as it interrupted his words.
Despite being the practical owner of Black Bass, no one was paying attention to his words.
‘Whether it’s this guy or that guy, is what I say just a town square drum?’
However, there was no time to grumble.
Content: Defeat the “Anthropomorphized Black Bass”
Reward: ?
Condition for Failure: All three die
Penalty on Failure: ?
The quest window had changed, and Luger and Kidd were staring blankly into space. The quest window that appeared to Leeha would also be visible to them.
‘It turned into a cooperative quest. The content is the same. The failure condition is lenient enough at this point.’
If all three died, it would be over? That meant that Black Bass would face all three at once.
The change in the penalty for failure could be interpreted as an intention to give separate penalties suitable to Kidd and Luger.
For Leeha, it remained fixed as “using Black Bass in the current situation.”
‘It’s been a while since a quest with nothing to lose. Well, getting here was nearly impossible, anyway.’
They turned their gazes from the quest window to Leeha for a moment.
As Leeha had somewhat interpreted, Luger and Kidd were also characters familiar with Middle Earth.
Predicting the quest’s success wasn’t much of a problem.
“Are you confident?”
“Well, I could do it on my own but—if you’re willing to help, I won’t refuse.”
“Hmph, there’s no way a guy like you can do this alone without our help. Shut up and accept. I will, you arrogant rifle.”
Luger was the first to press the accept button.
Just as Leeha was about to retort Luger’s words, Kidd also pressed the accept button. Kidd hadn’t hesitated much from the beginning.
‘With these two…’
What could be the problem?
Seeing Kidd’s smile, the anger of Leeha slowly subsided.
Despite pretending not to like each other, the bond of the Three Musketeers was far stronger.
In a situation where they all sufficiently recognized each other’s skills, Leeha also pressed the accept button.
“Alright, black. The three of us will… kill the illusion of you.”
As soon as Leeha finished speaking, a powerful light began to emanate from the bolt of Black Bass.
When the light, sufficient to completely cover the vision, exploded.
The three stood firmly on the ground.
This was before God and the mages had their final bet, in Middle Earth.
“Wow… This is…”
Leeha looked around. A much murkier atmosphere than usual greeted them.
The trees, the grass, even the distant cries were all things they experienced for the first time.
“Fate certainly smiled on you, you fool. First, check your weapon.”
“That was my plan, alright? Anyway, people can be so uptight. All we need to do for this quest is capture Black Bass, with the three of us—.”
Leeha grumbled at Luger, patting his own back. There was a comforting weight of the rifle strapped to it, which allowed him to confidently survey his surroundings.
Since they were in a place they would never experience again, it seemed apt to activate the recording function and thoroughly enjoy such an environment, which embodied the fun of Middle Earth.
“—Hey, what is this?”
However, the rifle felt different than usual. Specifically, he could feel another elongated object beside the gun barrel.
“W-wait a second. What’s going on? No, no!”
“… Even after reading the quest window, you failed to realize? Black Bass clearly stated that this quest requires bare hands.”
Kidd shook his head as he witnessed Leeha’s frantic behavior.
“Ha! I knew you’d do that, you blockhead. Were you seriously thinking of taking on Black Bass with a modern rifle? Hilarious! Even foolishness has its limits!”
Luger chuckled, ridiculing Leeha.
Yet Luger’s expression, as he loaded his weapon, was far from bright. The gun he was fiddling with wasn’t the 〈Cobalt Blue Python〉.
Having taken out some iron balls, he inserted them into the muzzle, pushing them in with the ramrod.
Kidd, similarly, was doing the same. However, Kidd’s weapon was a modified pistol with the barrel part cut off, making the loading process easier for him than for Luger.
“By the way, Kidd, why are you using pistols? And two of them?”
“It’s due to the trait of ‘Crimson Geckos’, isn’t it?”
Indeed, loading two pistols required some time. At this moment, the only one maintaining composure was Kidd. Even though Luger growled, his confidence seemed considerably shaken.
“Damn it, they couldn’t at least give me a weapon I can load. With this stupid musket—”
“No, it’s more likely shaped like the weapon you used during the ‘Trait Test’. If they truly intended to emulate ‘Crimson Geckos’, wouldn’t I have received four weapons as well?”
“Kuh—back then, at least, it was something much better than this!”
“… Even if you used high or special-grade items back then, at level 10, it wouldn’t have made much difference here.”
“I know that! Hey, Ha Leeha! How long are you going to sit around?”
Leeha glanced at Kidd and Luger, feeling disheartened. Was that what it meant?
『Thus, I wish to see your true might. Do you possess the courage and resolve to emerge from the abyss with bare hands?』
“So, it wasn’t about sealing Black Bass’s skills… it meant you can’t use Black Bass at all?”
It wasn’t just Black Bass but also the Cobalt Blue Python and Crimson Geckos. Ego Weapons, which defined the Three Musketeers’ features, were completely absent here. All that remained was the musket.
Luger’s unease, grumbling about having used something better, was entirely reasonable.
〈Trial Musket〉
Attack Power: 233
Range: 40m
Attack Speed: 1 shot per minute
Requirements: Strength 10 or higher, agility 10 or higher, black Powder, iron Ball, ramrod
Description: One bullet, one life — whether it’s your enemy or you.
“This…isn’t this the one used during the job advancement test?”
The test item for advancement. Did Black Bass intend to conduct a test by issuing a test item?
Regardless, that was not the most pressing matter. All items had been provided, and the die was cast.
They had to capture the 〈Anthropomorphized Black Bass〉 with the 〈Trial Musket〉. All within the primordial atmosphere exuding from the primordial world of Middle Earth.
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“How long do you intend to stand there for? Black Bass sent us here, which means this place is already familiar to him. If we don’t move quickly—.”
“I know! I know, but damn, it’s been so long since I used a musket, I need to readjust…”
Leeha poured black powder wrapped in a small paper, inserted the lead ball, and carefully secured it in place to prevent it from wobbling.
Leeha’s body began to move as he intended.
Just as one never forgets how to ride a bike or swim after learning.
The issue was the degree of proficiency. His hands didn’t load as quickly as they used to.
“A musketeer who can’t even use his loading rod? You might as well delete your character and reclass as a mage or something. Then again, with that brain, you’d screw up mana manipulation too. Just be a tank. If you’re ignorant, use your body. Hahaha.”
“Shut up, Luger. Ugh, damn it! 〈Delicate Handling〉!”
In the end, Leeha had to use one of his skills.
Even though he couldn’t use all of Black Bass’s skills, the musketeer still had some intrinsic skills.
A skill that automatically reloaded for 30 seconds. Leeha felt his body being moved by the system.
‘Right. I have to proceed like this. Without any awkward movements in my path— good, this is it.’
As soon as he performed an automatic reload with 〈Delicate Handling〉, Leeha unloaded everything that had been preloaded.
He slung his bag at an angle, prepared to quickly draw out reloading items, and took a deep breath.
Once his body was fully attuned to that flow, what remained was to master reloading without relying on skills or combat assistance systems.
“You fool— you didn’t forget what Kidd said about needing to hurry, did you!? You—.”
“Huuu…”
Leeha took a deep breath.
Luger was more agitated than Kidd, who was watching Leeha while leaning against an unfamiliar tree.
As soon as Kidd sensed Luger’s ‘unease’, he began scanning the surroundings.
He wondered if Luger’s instincts had detected danger.
While Leeha hid himself, he did not rush.
Now was the time for pure concentration.
If he didn’t master reloading in complete harmony with the musket and the flow of his body, he knew he could not succeed in this quest.
In that aspect, there was one advantage compared to when he first handled the musket.
After inserting the powder and the lead ball, he slammed the musket’s butt onto the ground without even using the loading rod.
Thwack—!
Before the crisp sound of wood and ground meeting could fade, Leeha swiftly adopted a kneeling shooting position and aimed at a target.
He pulled back the hammer and squeezed the trigger.
BANG──────!
“—Kraah! What, what was that? Already…?”
Luger, who had been restless beside Leeha, closed his mouth.
Compared to modern firearms he was used to, the sound was much louder and longer, and there was a billowing puff of pale white smoke not only from the muzzle but even from the hammer area.
Without even looking at Leeha, Kidd, who had been surveying the surroundings, spoke.
“Reloading time utilizing tap loading: 1.7 seconds… How is this possible—?”
“Whew, well, I’m certainly better than before. What are you doing, Luger? Let’s go.”
Typical tap loading, no matter how quickly executed, is limited to about four shots per minute.
Even with quick preparation, one has to take around 15 seconds to load a single shot.
Yet 1.7 seconds!?
The concept of tap loading itself was impossible with Kidd’s ‘pistol musket,’ so he had never attempted it. However, as Kidd was aware of the concept, he couldn’t help but be surprised by the shortened time.
“Tap… loading? What do you mean by that?”
Luger alternated glances between Leeha and Kidd, with an expression that indicated he was hearing this for the first time.
Quick reloading wasn’t necessary for the testing of 『Pierce』.
It’s a method unknown to ‘rookie’ Luger from his early days when he doubled or even tripled the powder, praying the barrel would remain intact.
“When were you so eager to get moving? Hurry up!”
Of course, no matter how skilled one was, loading a shot within three seconds was nearly impossible.
Two reasons made it possible.
One was the 100% synchronization rate.
Unlike the past, the far more detailed sensations allowed Leeha to adjust the powder amount with the kind of precision one would in reality.
And if it was the second time, it was certainly this.
‘Character Window.’
Name: Ha Leeha / Race: Human
Class: White Reaper / Level: 269 (0.7%)
Title: Shadow Hitman / Achievements: 187
HP: 11,870(8,309)
MP: 6,595
Stats:
Strength 912(+827)
Agility 5,500(+1,666)
Intelligence 690(+474)
Stamina 464(+338)
Mind 530(+206)
Remaining Stat Points: 63
The agility stat had reached a staggering 5,500.
The total stat points Ha Leeha gained in the battle against Tiamat, combined with level-up points, amounted to a massive 475. Since he had invested all the bonus stat points from various achievements into agility with no reservations, it was only natural that his hand movements would become swift.
‘Hmm, come to think of it, I still have those 63 points saved for an emergency. Maybe I should leave them for now. I might need to put them into stamina…’
Compared to ordinary users who would fret over squeezing the highest efficiency out of every single point, Ha Leeha’s thoughts seemed like a luxury in and of themselves.
“Let’s go. First, we need to understand the terrain of this place.”
“That’s right. There’s no deadline. If we can’t catch the Black Bass, we might waste several days here. We need to hurry.”
Kidd and Luger began walking, pushing through the grass that had grown up to their heights. Their target was the peak towering nearby.
“Hey, wait! You guys left me behind—”
Luger, who had been absentmindedly pondering the principles of tap loading, scrambled hastily to catch up with them.
The first day of hunting the ‘Anthropomorphized Black Bass’ had begun.
* * *
Ha Leeha carefully pushed aside the leaves.
The plant was so dense that he had to use the musket’s barrel to part it; it was a giant leaf of a plant growing from the ground.
It was so large it obstructed the view and even brushing against it with bare hands would inflict a status condition: Poisoned.
“Phew, it’s a relief that we haven’t encountered monsters for the last three hours. The remaining distance is roughly—”
“It’ll take over two more hours before we can see anything around.”
“—That’s right. Once we become more familiar with these plants, it should get much better.”
Ha Leeha acknowledged Kidd’s words with a nod. The peak they had seen from below was indeed as high and rough as they had anticipated. Fortunately, there weren’t many monsters around.
Ha Leeha took the lead, with Kidd following behind him, while Luger trailed even further back, panting heavily at least twenty steps removed.
“Damn it! Mountain climbing, what a pain! Is there even an end? To this world, the end— there were no stipulations about movement range in the quest description.”
“You, with your rugged appearance, complaining like that.”
“What, man!? To handle something like the ‘Acht-Acht’ cannon, you have to be so delicate— Hoo, you know how—”
Luger was too exhausted to even be annoyed by Ha Leeha’s teasing. He had been one of the most tired during their sudden forced march in the eastern part of the New Continent, so it was nothing unusual.
Even while trying to outdo Ha Leeha in vocal volume, his pace failed to quicken.
“But you do have a point about the movement range. It wasn’t just the lack of time; there wasn’t a specified area either.”
“Hm…”
The Black Bass did not impose any special conditions.
The sole determinant of the quest’s success or failure was survival.
What, then, did that imply about the other factors?
As the Three Musketeers, each of them mulled over their thoughts, continuing to climb. It was not until the peak of the mountain range came into view that Kidd spoke up quietly.
“We have to remember that this isn’t a real place.”
“Huh? What sudden nonsense?”
“It means there must be a boundary. This is an illusory space conjured by Black Bass based on his own memories… Naturally, we can’t go beyond what his memories include or what he can actualize in specific terrain.”
“That’s reasonable. Otherwise, it’d imply we could head to Laputa from here.”
Luger, following Kidd with dogged perseverance, lent his voice in agreement.
Leeha had only vaguely guessed this fact.
“I don’t know if Laputa still exists now. Everyone has seen it, right? We’ve all heard about the Black Bass’s memory, and we heard stories from the Dark Elf village.”
“Hmm, if God and demons still remain, there’s a high possibility that Laputa doesn’t exist,” someone agreed.
“I think so too. If the Devil left behind the Demon King’s Fragments, isn’t it possible that what God left behind is Laputa?”
As for the timeline, they couldn’t know for sure.
Even after looking at records from Saur Land and paintings left in Laputa, they couldn’t make it clear.
However, they could guess that God wouldn’t just sit back and take it.
“The battle between God and the Devil was sacred, so to speak. Lies or deception were not allowed to interfere, as a basic premise. It would be impossible to deceive an entity that is a god, after all.”
Despite this, the Devil left behind his avatars known as the “Demon King’s Fragments.”
Could this be considered a trickery or not?
The gods might have let themselves be deceived knowingly. However, it might also be that God deceived the Devil in turn.
“An empty island called Laputa… Isn’t that the evidence that they made a pathway to where they dwell?”
If ever the Demon King’s Fragments were to become active, if they were to attempt to destroy all order in Middle Earth, could it be that they meant to ask to come and speak with them?
“If you think about it that way—no, there’s no way God wouldn’t know about it, right? The activation of the Demon King’s Fragments is obvious, but why—hmm?!”
Leeha’s mind became a tangled mess with various thoughts. It was a maze of thoughts that couldn’t be unraveled without knowing the circumstances before and after.
He shook his head to dispel the extraneous thoughts.
They would eventually learn the truth. For now, they needed to focus on the task at hand.
“Alright! Let’s check the terrain with ‘Eagle’s Eye’!”
“First, we need to confirm the terrain. Since we don’t know the enemy’s location or appearance yet—.”
“I know, I know. Wow, over there—it’s so impossible to gauge the tree’s size that the distance feels distorted. It feels like Southeast Asia, or some jungle, Amazon…”
The old continent reconstructed from Black Bass’s memory was laying bare for Leeha and Kidd. Leeha somehow felt in high spirits.
Was it because there was confidence and relief in the belief that as long as the three of them were together, they would not fail Black Bass’s quest?
He exclaimed in excitement.
“Oh, a river! We’ve confirmed a river! Even though it’s quite dark with all those clouds in the sky—judging by the sun’s movement, it seems approximately to the west, with the river stretching roughly straight for about 6km—hmm?”
Something caught Leeha’s eye while observing a world full of familiar yet strange plants.
Something sparkled.
Leeha could ascertain it.
It clearly wasn’t sunlight reflecting off the water. After all, wasn’t it slightly away from the river?
Was there something along the riverbank?
Was it sparkling sand?
There was no way the reflection from sand could be visible from over 5km away. Even though ‘Eagle’s Eye’ had good performance, it wasn’t that good.
“Wait, that can’t be…”
Leeha immediately lowered his posture.
Still not satisfied, he lay flat on the ground before slowly lifting his head.
What that artificial glittering might mean.
Alternating, the reflective light hit Leeha’s left and right eyes. It was wavering.
To be precise, it was trying to find something.
“It’s quite interesting. Some living things over there look almost like… Toon. Compared to the dinosaurs that enjoyed advanced civilization in Saur Land, they are entirely barren—well, it’s actually before they discovered Laputa’s technology, so I suppose it’s natural for them to be.”
“Kidd!”
Leeha suddenly stood up and ran towards Kidd.
Kidd, who had discovered the ‘dinosaurs’ in the lowlands and was completely focused on them, turned to look at Leeha.
Leeha was already tackling Kidd as if they were wrestling. As Leeha hugged Kidd’s waist and pushed him to the ground.
“Ugh—.”
Whizz—
Ha! Something brushed past Kidd’s shoulder.
Leeha and Kidd tumbled over each other and rolled on the ground. As Kidd rolled, he grimaced in pain and groaned.
“Ugh?!”
Arcane Sniper - Chapter 989
Chapter 989
It hadn’t been for “Leeha’s” relentless tackle.
“What on earth are you doing… hm?”
Luger, who had just reached the summit, saw Leeha and “Kidd” lying on the ground together.
Seeing Kidd gripping his shoulder and Leeha still crouched down, Luger instinctively dropped to the ground.
He perfectly understood the situation.
“Kidd! Are you okay? Kidd! Damn, there should be an emergency potion―.”
Leeha rummaged through his bag to find a potion.
“… Oh no, surely not! Couldn’t it be dangerous?”
Turning his head in the opposite direction of where Leeha and Kidd had collapsed, Luger alternated his gaze between the two.
“They only even let me use a musket, which was infuriating enough― and now it’s using Black Bass just because it is Black Bass?!”
───!
Answering Luger’s frustration, gunshots were heard from afar. Luger calculated the distance based on the already significantly diminished noise.
“At least 4km― No, perhaps―.”
“It was near the stream. It might have exceeded 5km.”
Leeha, who was holding a potion bottle to Kidd’s mouth, turned to Luger.
Fortunately, this area was high ground, meaning no additional shots would come if they stayed low.
However, Leeha’s expression was not positive.
“Do you know what specs the Black Bass has, ‘Ha Leeha’?”
“I know. A shot from over 5km…”
The Black Bass was a sniper rifle.
Leeha knew even the real-world rifle that served as its base. An impossible 5km shot wasn’t unheard of.
If one controlled every aspect of the bullet and read all surrounding conditions, it was possible to hit a target 5km away.
“It’s not impossible. While it wouldn’t be easy… With the right ‘eyes’, it’s feasible.”
“How could a Black Bass have ‘eyes’…?”
“Scope.”
What had glinted just moments ago was undoubtedly the reflection of a ‘scope’.
If an item not part of the basic specs was equipped on a Black Bass, could that mean it was usable?
If items were accessible, then what about skills?
Leeha inspected Kidd’s shoulder again. Kidd’s wound was practically ‘severely grazed’.
If the Black Bass bullet had worked its full power, it couldn’t have ended like this.
“It’s a tank-buster sniper bullet caliber. If it’s within effective range, it should tear off your shoulder, even if it grazes you.”
However, this level of scratch indicated that the bullet had traveled the ‘maximum range’, losing much of its energy by then.
“The question remains whether the Black Bass can extend its effective range…”
Using skills like 〈Sniping〉 or 〈Joint Fixation〉 makes it achievable.
Yet the fact that it ended in such a minor wound?
It meant the Black Bass hadn’t used either of those skills.
“At least one thing is confirmed. The Black Bass seems incapable of using all my skills. It would apply its inherent skills, of course. And judging by the sniper skill, as demonstrated― it grazed us from a distance of at least 4.7km downhill to high ground. Nearly on par with me.”
Leeha mused as he said this. Luger chewed his lip listening.
It’s not the item or skills that mattered. What’s crucial is the possibility of a sniper rifle as over-technology and the skill to wield it.
Yet the over-technology remains intact, wielded with skill akin to Ha Leeha?
“… It’s like a practice for when you morph into a chimera.”
“The important part― but damn, the issue is facing such an opponent with a musket!”
Kidd remarked, managing to lift his upper body while clutching his shoulder.
Luger lashed out, “So is it fine that I turned into a chimera then!?” but Leeha ignored his outburst.
He had to contemplate the true meaning of the Black Bass quest.
Having obtained even the sacred blood of Ahlo, absorbing divine blood which even the enchanted bullet had not possessed― expecting to ‘inevitably’ pass the Black Bass trial quest? A carefree spirit? A sense of relief?
“… That’s overreaching.”
He should have realized it from the start.
Completing the simple condition of defeating the 〈Anthropomorphized Black Bass〉 was too straightforward.
It didn’t mean that at least one of the three had to survive. Even if two out of the three died, it didn’t matter.
It suggested that success would be acknowledged as long as one person was left to capture the Black Bass.
That was not consideration.
‘Even if a truckload of users armed with muskets came at us, it doesn’t matter―’
Confidence.
It was the confidence Leeha himself held and the confidence possessed by the Black Bass, which had copied Leeha’s patterns and skills.
‘If it turns out like this… how should we fight?’
The Three Musketeers only had muskets that, even with skill extensions, barely reached a range of around 300 meters against the enhanced sniper rifles with an almost 5km range, capable of causing severe injuries with just a graze.
If the distance was that much of a disparity, would using skills make any difference?
Under normal circumstances, the difference in power would be enough to make one give up.
“It’s true. If I become a chimera, I’d be in utter despair.”
“You overestimate yourself. I can win.”
“Shut up, Luger. You were the first to get scared and lie flat.”
“I have great survival instincts. Unlike someone who stupidly pokes their head up on a mountain top.”
However, these were not ordinary users.
Kidd listened to Luger’s sarcasm while pulling something out of his bag.
Spreading out a paper on the ground, Kidd began to draw with his left hand while using his right to stop the bleeding from his shoulder.
“Kidd, surely―.”
“This is what you call bravery, Luger. I’ve gathered all the necessary information.”
“Wow! You got all that in that short time?”
“Not all of it.”
Kidd began noting down necessary information succinctly.
From the topographical differences visible at the moment to the enemy’s direction based on his angle of attack, and even notable landmarks.
Leeha watched Kidd’s work with a contented smile.
“Much better than Luger.”
“W-What!?”
“What I realized here is that, Luger, you’re nothing without the ‘Cobalt Blue Python’, right?”
Up to that point, it was Kidd who had displayed overwhelming competence, Leeha noted, and Luger offered no rebuttal.
He briefly panicked, thinking Luger would pull out a gun when his hand went into his bag, but that wasn’t the case.
Moreover, Luger was an undeniable member of the Three Musketeers and the first user to become the heir of the Musketeer hero.
He wasn’t a fool.
“Damn it… Did I think it was just late or something. It was strange from the start. The quests of Middle Earth were never going to be easy. With just the resources we have, we could never beat the Black Bass. We’ll have to use everything we can gather locally.”
“My goodness… Did you gather all this on your way up here?”
“Did you think I’d feel like I’m on a picnic like you? Or did you think I’d fallen behind because it was too hard― surely not.”
“It sure seemed like it―.”
“Shut up.”
Luger intertwined tough plant stems with hard nut shells.
After binding the stems, which bent like wires with difficulty, he tied it to a nearby tree.
“What’s that―.”
Then he took off his hat and placed it on the nut shell.
In this ecosystem where everything was gigantic, the nut shell was just about the size of a human head.
Leeha understood Luger’s intention.
If long-range combat was impossible and getting closer wasn’t an option?
“We have to make throwing, setup weapons and decoy dummies. Each of these baits will reduce our distance from the Black Bass by 100 meters.”
If they fooled it once, it would allow for a safer approach.
Even Kidd stopped drawing the map to look at Luger with a smile.
The Three Musketeers didn’t give up. Despite the overwhelming disparity in firepower, they were preparing to overcome it.
Leeha nodded as he watched them.
If he had been alone, he might not have prepared so quickly. But now, he had them.
Once instincts and knowledge had set a course, all that remained was to steel his mind.
“Alright. Even though I don’t like the idea of capturing myself… let’s start the hunt.”
“I think I now know who ‘didn’t’ do anything.”
“I did too! I found the river? And if Black Bass is me― that is, using my attribute exactly!”
Leeha quickly scanned the map drawn by Kidd.
The current mountain peak they were on and the river nearby where Black Bass had moved. If he knew all the terrain here?
“As a sniper, I know best where a sniper would like.”
This could be turned to their advantage.
“Well, since it’s Black Bass, he won’t be easy to catch… For now, let’s head this way.”
At the spot Leeha pointed to, only two simple words were written.
『Dinosaur』
“Did you even hear what I was saying? Over there is―”
“Yeah. I heard you. And Luger also said we have to procure everything we can locally. This kind of thing is for special forces, not snipers… but there’s no choice. Black Bass will come this way.”
“How do you know?”
“Because he’s expecting us to move down here.”
Kidd, who had asked Leeha, and Luger next to him tilted their heads in confusion. However, in Leeha’s mind, a simulation was already underway.
Black Bass would know about the existence of the dinosaurs.
‘Since this whole space is something created by Black Bass.’
He had invented the dinosaurs. It would be natural for him to calculate that the Three Musketeers would discover such conspicuous life forms.
So, what next?
Where would the humans threatened by sniper fire from kilometers away go next?
‘A place where they can hide themselves.’
A location among various nearby creatures where they can take refuge.
If Black Bass has finished considering that the humans will come to the dinosaurs’ settlement there?
While Luger and Kidd looked at the point marked 『Dinosaur』 on the map, Leeha was observing a different spot next to it.
‘He will come to the sniper point that offers the best view of that area.’
The next battle would probably occur around that vicinity.
“We need to go this way before sunset.”
“Let’s go.”
“We can’t waste days on this kind of quest, hurry up.”
Leeha, Kidd, and Luger began to descend the mountain in the opposite direction.
* * *
Amidst the dense plants, flowers larger than a human head had grown.
Despite being flowers, their dark colors made the three real heads sticking out among them hardly noticeable.
“Isn’t it possible that they might understand us?”
“It’s safer to consider them as unintelligent creatures. Compared to those in Saur Land, it’s as stark as the difference between the civilized and the barbaric, isn’t it?”
All three utilized their Eagle’s Eye or Hawk Eye skills to analyze the distant monsters.
The distance to the dinosaurs was approximately 800 meters.
Leeha wanted to try cooperating with something, but Kidd flatly rejected the proposal.
“Hehe, now I see why other users look down on you. Holding onto hope until now, it’s as if you forgot the pterosaurs we encountered on the way down?”
“That was just a monster. Anyway, who said they looked down on us?”
“The pterosaur from earlier seemed to look down on you. Hahaha!”
Leeha angrily retorted to Luger, but Luger didn’t even flush at Leeha’s indignation.
‘Damn bastard. Sometimes he’s like a knife, cutting right to the quick. Sharply, unnecessarily sharp… Well, thanks to that, spotting monsters was quick.’
It was a sense that could only be described as olfactory.
It was evident that Luger, the rearmost person, had been the first to detect the assaulting pterosaurs due to that sense.
Even though it was a musket whose attack power wasn’t corrected by agility stats, the three weren’t flustered.
Matching the head of a pterosaur flying towards them, piercing with its beak, was by no means an easy task, but they managed it.
Each handled one pterosaur, as Luger and Leeha aimed their muskets at their heads.
Although the rushing monsters had acceleration that posed a significant threat, the environment here was unforgiving.
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The musket bullets struck the head but did not result in an immediate kill. Leeha could not forget the sound of “clang” as the bullet ricocheted off.
Fortunately, even if it did not cause instant death, the damage was enough to induce unconsciousness.
Among the Three Musketeers, there was a member specialized in movement speed. As the pterosaurs plummeted, Kidd had already reached their landing site.
Kidd placed the muzzle of a musket pistol against the heart of the pterosaurs, still unconscious, and fired.
The Three Musketeers nodded as they saw the heart pierced and the monsters finally turning to ash.
With four firearms dealing 233 damage each, the Three Musketeers could efficiently take down two monsters with over 40,000 HP.
Leeha’s proposal was built on such confidence and skill, but Kidd disagreed with him.
“However, if our attempt to converse fails, the retreat will not be easy. And if Black Bass arrives, we will be in trouble.”
Kidd rejected Leeha’s proposal once more. Leeha did not intend to persist stubbornly. Kidd’s judgment was indeed rational.
Not all the dinosaurs were bipedal predators like those from Toon or Saur Land. Some were quadrupeds with massive defensive plates on their backs, while others had four horns on their heads.
They appeared heinous, but since they were not fighting each other, Leeha thought of the possibility. However, considering the risk of failure, it was not something to challenge recklessly.
“If you want to test the teleport scroll, go ahead. If the crystal ball doesn’t work, you’ll be the first to die.”
The teleport scroll randomly sends the user to a location. Creating some memory locations through a crystal ball and using them to navigate is fundamental in Middle Earth.
However, this place was a virtual site created by Black Bass. In a state where remembering a location was impossible with the crystal ball, the three could not use the teleport scroll indiscriminately.
If used and they ended up in the middle of a monster-infested area, the quest could end abruptly.
“Tsk, no sense as usual. Anyway, engaging Black Bass head-on will be difficult… Ah! Perhaps we should find another race to cooperate with. There should be dwarves or elves, right?”
“Even if they exist now, this isn’t the ‘actual past’. It is a test area created by Black Bass, and it’s unlikely they’d be helpful.”
“Ugh, that’s also true.”
The three put their heads together in contemplation. They had arrived at the location with the dinosaurs but were unsure how to proceed.
“How likely is it that Black Bass will arrive at the location you pointed out, Ha Leeha?”
“Although I haven’t seen precisely, Black Bass will likely mimic my appearance and move in the patterns I’ve used before. There is an 80% or more chance it will be at the place I initially pointed out. There are two more sniper points, but considering we must arrive today and the link with the surrounding terrain, the sniper difficulties are much higher. There’s no need to risk such places given our bullet range limit of 1 km.”
There were only a few spots from which the dinosaur herd’s current location could be sniped. First and foremost, since Black Bass’s perspective involved firepower superiority, it likely wouldn’t move to points with low success rates.
“Assuming it used that ghost-type movement skill, it might be nearly upon us. Damn it, if it had ‘Mana Clairvoyance’, even random decoys would be ineffective…”
Luger alternated between looking at Kidd’s map and the location Leeha pointed out. It was the hill beyond the lake where the dinosaur herd had gathered, visible from the Three Musketeers’ perspective.
“If it’s already arrived and using ‘Camouflage’, it would be even worse—but it probably isn’t the case now. Moving directly with ‘Ghost in the Shell’ has its limitations.”
The journey down included more than just battles. Black Bass would naturally use ‘Black Bass’s skills,’ as Leeha figured. With every skill utilized, it could potentially arrive at a similar time to Leeha’s group.
However, since the skill teleported based on the impact point, ‘Anthropomorphized Black Bass’, which couldn’t use Jellypong or the partner dragon’s power for long-distance moves, offered them a small piece of fortune in their misfortune.
“But complacency is no option. We must arrive within 40 minutes…”
Leeha assessed the current position, Black Bass’s approaching sniper point, and the dinosaur herd.
“We need to find a breakthrough.”
It was never going to be an easy challenge. However, failing to achieve it meant the quest was doomed to 100% failure.
Luger, Kidd, and Leeha started extracting everything from their bags. Strategy was their only chance to level the firepower disparity.
“But if it’s any combat pattern I’ve used even once, Black Bass will remember it too. What should I do? How?”
How do you deceive an enemy that won’t fall for the same trick? Leeha realized it would be difficult with the current approach he had always fought with.
Therefore, they needed to deceive, and deceive boldly. To do that, Leeha had to be ready himself.
“I have to die.”
Leeha looked at Kidd and Luger.
Kidd, who had been observing the movements of the dinosaurs and devising a path, and Luger, who was crafting a dummy, widened their eyes in surprise.
“W-what do you mean?”
“Leaving the back to the hyungs and stepping out first by yourself~ Is that what you mean? Puhaha!”
Luger burst into an artificial laugh. His eyes did not smile at all.
This was because he noticed that if Leeha were to be eliminated, the remaining two would not be able to succeed.
However, Leeha was serious.
“To kill, I have to die.”
One by one, slowly, Leeha began to unravel his thoughts.
It was, so to speak, akin to a game of go-stop left on its own.
The enemy could utilize the skills and abilities Leeha possessed. However, unlike a typical go-stop game, the difference lay in possessing pieces of different kinds.
One side held cha車 and po包, while the other held jo卒 and sang象, creating a chessboard of absolute disadvantage.
Leeha moved the first piece.
* * *
Near the lakeshore, the dinosaurs still gathered.
The late afternoon sunlight shone upon the diocese of them. Although it wasn’t nighttime yet, round objects occasionally poked out between the trees and plants from where one could comfortably observe the dinosaurs.
They were in peculiar places to be regarded as fruits.
Some protruded near the base of trees, while others, of the same species, protruded roughly 175cm above the ground.
Considering the overall size of the plants, it was as though the fruits had grown in absurdly low positions.
If a clueless person were to witness it, it would have made for a perfect trap for them to be startled, but the likelihood of them falling for such a trap was slim.
Just as the Three Musketeers had feared, the dummies that slightly poked their heads out to imitate a human head were largely ineffective.
Until just moments ago.
Bang—!
With a rough sound, something lodged itself into the tree trunk.
Bang────────!
Soon, the sound of gunfire echoed. Just before the gunfire and just before the gaping hole appeared, someone dashed out from behind the massive tree trunk.
The person, with somewhat reckless strides, began to run toward the dinosaurs gathered by the lakeside.
However, the distance from the forest to the dinosaurs was roughly 300 meters.
Although relatively short, it was too far to evade from Black Bass, a bolt-action gun. Reloading took less than a second.
Bang────────!
The moment the second gunshot was heard, the running figure’s head seemed to explode. More precisely, the fruit shell that served as a helmet bounced off.
The astonishing point was that there was ‘nothing’ where the helmet had been knocked away.
Like the body had vanished, as soon as the helmet disappeared, his clothes dropped to the ground.
There was one reason the person’s run had seemed awkward from the start.
『Myo, myongmyong―!』
Jellypong, who stretched tentacles to mimic limbs, awkwardly ambled with nothing on his head, stumbled toward the lakeside, leaving all garments behind on the ground.
“Such a foolish trick…”
Black Bass frowned momentarily, but Leeha had not broken his promise not to use it defensively.
The issue was that Black Bass had fired two bullets, and one had struck Jellypong’s helmet precisely.
That was the reason why Black Bass had frowned.
The Three Musketeers would undoubtedly decipher the wealth of information contained in just those two hits.
“Sniping distance 2.2 km, azimuth angle around 23 degrees, elevation angle approximately +4 degrees, location identified, responding!”
Bang─────────!
Kidd shouted with all his might, but his voice was immediately drowned out by the musket’s gunshot.
Black Bass’s bullet was shot in an instant towards the direction of the billowing white smoke.
However, upon reflection, there was no need to respond. What was the point of shooting from a distance greater than the maximum range of a musket?
Why did people who had tried to conceal their presence by minimizing mana deliberately reveal their location?
────, ────, ────!
The white smoke continued to rise at regular intervals.
Was it possible for such rapid firing to be executed at such brief intervals when the shooter remained unidentified, hidden behind the forest and trees?
Could the Three Musketeers pull off something like this? It seemed improbable.
“Is it the Crimson Gecko Bearer… Kidd?”
Black Bass quickly realized that this was all the work of ‘one person’.
It was a ploy to make it seem like several people were firing meaninglessly from this location. The question was, would the Three Musketeers engage in such an ‘obvious’ ruse?
“Kaahhhhh—!”
“Kiiiiii!”
“Bwoooooooong—!”
Kidd had not aimed his shot at Black Bass, who was 2 km away.
While it undeniably served to catch Black Bass’s attention, Kidd’s primary goal from the start was singular.
“Let’s drive them out!”
The shooting was to incite chaos among the dinosaurs!
In a world where the concept of firearms did not exist, the eruptions of white smoke with thunderous sounds from different locations was an unfamiliar and shocking event for the prehistoric creatures.
* * *
Rumble, rumble, rumble!
Kidd had shot rapidly while running through the forest to direct the dinosaurs on ‘the path they should run’.
As the dinosaurs ran, something began to dangle on their backs, shoulders, and behind their thighs.
“Eliminate mana and hide behind the dinosaurs. Hehehe… Mana Clairvoyance would be pointless. Mana Clairvoyance Deactivate.”
What was a decoy, and what were Leeha and Luger? It was certain that they could not be distinguished properly with Mana Clairvoyance.
If a significant amount of retained mana had already been used, they would appear fully integrated with the nearby dinosaurs.
Moreover, if decoys were attached to various parts of the dinosaurs’ bodies, black Veth would have no choice but to spend considerable time searching for the humans attempting to shield themselves with the dinosaurs’ bodies.
Since the dinosaurs were already heading towards Black Bass’s direction, the more time he spent, the closer the humans hiding behind the dinosaurs would get to Black Bass.
“It’s a good strategy. Bearers.”
If Black Bass had been foolish, the plan would have certainly succeeded.
But Black Bass was not an ordinary NPC. What reason was there to expend unnecessary effort against creatures startled by mere musket fire?
“Multi-Warhead Shot.”
Whoooosh────────k!
Moreover, he possessed an overwhelming skill in firepower, so there was no reason to waste it. Fifty small bullets were shot out in an instant, raining down on the dinosaurs’ path.
These bullets, larger than the sound of the musket’s gunfire and moving at a speed that the prehistoric creatures could not even perceive, were enough to evoke greater fear than the white smoke rising from the forest.
“Groooarrr!”
“Bwoo, bwoooo—!”
The dinosaurs began to scatter in disarray, panicking.
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In that moment, spinning around and twirling in place, they could see everything attached to the shoulders and backs of others.
For Black Bass, equipped even with a scope, distinguishing between a dummy and a human was as easy as pie.
The Three Musketeers also quickly grasped the situation.
True to their instincts, something leaped off the back of the carnivorous dinosaur that most resembled a T-rex.
“Damn it, black Besssss!”
Securing his musket’s straps tightly in a cross pattern, Leeha ran frantically.
His voice sounded slightly flustered, but his actions were swift and agile.
The regret, however, lay in the fact that the dinosaurs hadn’t fully reached the lake, and from where the dinosaurs charged, reaching Black Bass required a detour around the lake.
“Heh heh heh… So, Bearer, is this the best you can do after setting up numerous devices? If you can’t handle my firepower alone, how do you plan to face that ‘Arcane Bullet’ and the Demon King’s Fragment?”
Black Bass chuckled bitterly as he moved his gun barrel.
Leeha was running, gasping for breath, his figure so conspicuous it didn’t need a scope to locate.
With a direct distance of about 1.5 km remaining, circumventing the lakeside meant much more movement ahead.
Moreover, Black Bass precisely aimed at Leeha’s chest amidst the visible running, allowing more than enough time.
“Hmm?”
*Boom!*
As the trigger was pulled, Black Bass saw it.
Before the gunshot rang out, a fleeting green light shimmered for a moment.
The green glow that appeared to envelop Leeha as he ran vanished swiftly.
“Damn, damn, I won’t go down easily, you vile bastard!”
Leeha yelled as he resumed his sprint.
The bullet, which he thought was heading straight for his chest, was evaded by Leeha!
To be precise, it wasn’t merely dodged by movement alone.
To react, they needed to slow the bullet’s speed by at least 0.1 seconds, indicating that the recent green glow had created something.
And Black Bass, who had been closely observing Leeha, knew the reason.
“〈Force Barrier〉. Ha ha, an amusing little trick.”
〈Expert’s Force Barrier〉
A meager shield skill pinned on the ring bought Leeha a few mere seconds of life.
The unfortunate part was that the extension of life was only for a few brief seconds.
Black Bass pulled back the bolt, reloaded another bullet, and aimed at Leeha once more.
“It is unfortunate, Bearer. The Bearers of Cobalt Blue Python and the Crimson Geckos cannot defeat me… No, the Crimson Geckos isn’t even approaching this direction. Making the hidden Cobalt Blue Python face me alone.”
Though he had narrowed the distance considerably within those few seconds of panic, now he was just nearing the end of circumventing the lakeside.
More time was necessary to ascend this elevated place.
“In the end, I must endure another era of eternity, awaiting the next Bearer.”
Despite the regret in its voice, Black Bass remained unwavering.
The one who truly sensed the weight of this trial was none other than Black Bass, the quest-giving AI itself.
It quietly pulled the trigger.
*Boom!*
Leeha, who had been running, staggered and fell as if a plastic bag were fluttering in the wind.
A small hole was in Leeha’s chest, but the wound on his back was large enough to fit two fists.
Yet, the expression on Black Bass’s face was peculiar.
It wasn’t the face of someone regretfully hitting Leeha nor the victor of the trial.
“Hmm?”
This was because it could sense it as the moment unfolded.
The one whose chest was punctured was undoubtedly Leeha. Or rather, someone who had been Leeha.
“…… This taste… Hehe, I see.”
Black Bass could strike at the essence itself. It was capable of distinguishing the taste of the blood of a creature pierced by a projectile, which was part of Black Bass itself.
Thus, it could be both surprised and unfazed at the same time.
“It wasn’t the Bearer! In that case—!”
As it watched the human lying sprawled on the ground slowly transform into Luger, it tried to swing the muzzle of its gun.
If a trap was used, surely it had to be hidden in a way he could not anticipate, and it was obvious they would approach in the midst of this commotion.
“―Kkut?!”
However, its body did not move easily.
When Black Bass finally realized its ‘condition’ and barely managed to swing its gun, what it saw before its eyes was something between a translucent liquid and a solid.
『Myong Myong?』
Black Bass was startled.
Had Jellypong come to the only location where it felt a presence?
“―Jelly…pong? But using you to kill me wouldn’t be a true test of meaning—”
『Myong Myong!』
Jellypong quickly vanished from Black Bass’s sight. Just as Black Bass attempted to rise, something touched the back of its head.
Tick.
What stopped its movement was a thin and sharp metallic sound.
It was distinctly different from the loading of a bolt-action rifle, the sound of cocking a musket’s hammer.
“Huuu… I’ve caught you, Black Bass. By doing this, I pass the test in the truest sense, right?”
“Hehe… Where exactly… how were you hiding?”
In a half-risen, awkward position, droplets of water dripped down onto the head of Black Bass. Yet, it could not turn around.
Caught in a ‘Burn Out’ state, his anthropomorphized body reacted sluggishly. It was Leeha’s insurance, keeping intense focus until the final moment.
“It’s darkest under the lamp.”
“Under the lamp?”
Black Bass asked. Leeha quietly smiled.
* * *
“Do you think that even makes sense?”
“It’s inevitable. Black Bass is, you could say, me! And as you all know better, I won’t be fooled by a plan that’s been twisted twice!”
“…… Never in my life have I seen someone so capable of boasting about himself.”
Upon hearing Leeha’s plan, Kidd shook his head.
Leeha passionately argued to convince him, yet it only reinforced Luger’s hostility.
Nevertheless, Kidd and Luger had nothing much to say besides expressing concern or worry.
“And I’m embarrassed to say it too!? Anyway, with just one or two decoys, he won’t be fooled. The first goal is to disable 〈Mana Clairvoyance〉.”
Leeha’s words, though risky, flowed in a reasonable direction.
“So you’re saying to attach decoys behind the dinosaurs to mislead him?”
“That’s the best approach. Emphasize, ‘We’re hiding behind the dinosaurs! You won’t see us with 〈Mana Clairvoyance〉 on.'”
“But even if the guy is deceived, then what? Jump off the dinosaurs and start running? Black Bass might be as dumb as you, but that’s not likely—”
“Yeah, it’s not likely. So we have to trick him once more. To make sure Black Bass focuses only on you, Luger.”
“There’s a way—?”
“There is. Here.”
Leeha rummaged through his bag. Kidd instantly knew what it was.
“Ugh… Is that the 〈Kojobu’s Spyglass〉?”
“Specifically, it’s the 〈Heroic Spyglass of Kojobu〉! If you just call it Kojobu’s Spyglass, they sound like a toy.”
“What is this ridiculous item?”
『Heroic Spyglass of Kojobu』
Leeha quickly unequipped it and handed it over to Luger. Luger accepted it with a doubtful expression, and as he swiftly checked the item description window, his face hardened.
“Where in the world did you find such an item?”
“I can’t tell you that. Anyway, after turning off ‘Mana Clairvoyance’, when you put it on and run, it’ll be effective in tying up Black Bass’s vision. Oh, and take this too, just in case.”
Leeha removed his own ring and gave it to Luger, who, in a moment of confusion, slipped it onto his finger. The fact that it ended up on the ring finger of his left hand was problematic, and Kidd let out a faint hum.
“There’s no need to propose in such a manner.”
“Dammit, putting it on in such an unpleasant way—”
“What nonsense are you talking about?”
Leeha jumped in protest. There wasn’t much time for jokes.
Luger also studied the item description as he figured out its usage.
Being expert-level skill, it wouldn’t completely block Black Bass’s bullets. However, if it could delay it by even a fraction of a second…
“Luger… with your instincts, you can manage it, right? The sniper’s firing timing, when Black Bass zeroes in on you as you’re running. You can read it, can’t you?”
“You crazy bastard, you think I’m some kind of psychic. But if Black Bass really has the same habit of patterns as you, Ha Leeha—”
Luger clicked his tongue.
Helping Leeha to this extent wasn’t part of his original plan. Moreover, the Three Musketeers were not just simple comrades but rivals at heart.
To become Arcane Sniper one day, they would need to aim guns at each other, and Luger had been preparing for that moment all along.
“—It’s not impossible. I can dodge it once, at least.”
This meant he had already mastered the timing of Leeha’s sniping. Human habits aren’t easily erased, and Luger had ample experience with the habits of Leeha by his side.
The fact that he used ‘Force Barrier’ during Black Bass’s firing timing wasn’t just a coincidence.
Kidd looked at Luger.
The expressions on Luger and Leeha’s faces signaled that there was no avoiding the execution of this plan.
If there wasn’t time for another strategy, Kidd insisted that they perfect even the most detailed aspects.
“First. I understand the plan to locate Black Bass using Jellypong.”
“Yes, Kidd’s role is crucial. The most Black Bass can fire is two shots. Maybe the first shot will take off Jellypong’s head—”
『Myong, myong!』
“—Don’t worry. Just make sure not to fill your head area with tendrils and use branches or leaves to fill it as much as you can. Jellypong, just let your arms and legs dangle to keep a humanoid shape and use trees and fruit for the head. Black Bass will surely aim for the head with the first shot, without a doubt.”
『Myong.』
Leeha comforted Jellypong.
Once discovered, Black Bass would shoot anywhere, including the torso. However, if Black Bass was like Leeha, a sniper whose position was yet undiscovered would aim only at the head. That ensured Jellypong could be safeguarded.
Jellypong’s role might be considered the most dangerous in this operation, hence ensuring they had a perfect grasp of the plan was essential.
Kidd paused to allow their conversation a moment before summarizing Leeha’s plan again.
“Second. Though I’m not entirely sure, understanding the plan involves using skills to incite a fight among the dinosaurs, then having Ha Leeha approach unseen and attach decoys to their bodies.”
“It would be troublesome if dinosaurs killed each other, but it probably won’t go that far. After all, this skill doesn’t last long—and those dinosaurs are level 250, no, likely over level 270.”
Necessary for inciting dinosaur battles would be ‘Reservoir Dogs’. For a stealthy approach, he needed ‘Melding Breath’.
The danger was welcoming the fact that the stronger the enemy, the shorter the skill’s duration. Leeha showcased a slightly self-deprecating smile.
If the skill’s power were strong, the dinosaurs would have chewed each other up, and the operation would have failed from the start.
“Crap, it’s a ridiculous stealth skill that even ordinary mana detection can’t pick up, so why exclude using it to approach Black Bass? It wouldn’t be detected by ‘Mana Clairvoyance’ either.”
Luger grumbled upon hearing about Leeha’s skill. However, Leeha wasn’t willing to take such an ‘apparent gamble.’
“Can’t tell.”
“What?”
“‘Mana Clairvoyance’ and ‘Melding Breath’ are my skills. No one else possesses them. Do you get it? With ‘Mana Clairvoyance’, I couldn’t verify whether ‘Melding Breath’ was visible or not.”
“…… Avoiding untested areas, eh, coward.”
TL’s Corner:
Leeha nerfed himself by not using Melding Breath. Coward.
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“Please consider it being cautious.”
Leeha never had the occasion to see his own body. He couldn’t even test his skills by observing his reflection in water.
Mana Clairvoyance did not encompass reflected visions; it would merely reveal the underwater world. Opting for an easy approach might have been anticipated by Black Bass.
Additionally, being targeted by the “Reservoir Dogs” while approaching fighting dinosaurs posed a risk.
If his skill dissipated faster than Leeha expected, the Three Musketeers themselves might find their lives threatened, jeopardizing the feasibility of all current strategies.
“Hmm, Ha Leeha, since your point is valid, I’ll overlook it. Now, following the second step, once we’ve confirmed Black Bass’s location, I’ll drive the dinosaur in that direction using my musket-pistol and ‘black powder’—”
“Exactly. We only need to make noise. You don’t have to use Luger’s or my musket, Kidd. Just set up the powder charges in the trees nearby, aligned in the right direction, and ignite them while running. Luger will also need a musket to play his role properly.”
“So where will you put your musket?”
“Right in front of where I’ll hide. I’ll cover it with some leaves first.”
“This is exactly the issue. If Black Bass hasn’t lifted the ‘Mana Clairvoyance,’ you’ll be immediately detected.”
“No, Black Bass will not be able to see me.”
“How can you be so sure?”
“Because…… they would never imagine where I’ll be.”
Leeha turned toward the dinosaurs. The Three Musketeers turned their heads with him. Disguised as Leeha, Luger’s role was to hide and run among the dinosaurs.
But where would Leeha himself hide?
“Is there a place to hide there? I feel like I could blow up your head faster than anyone.”
“I agree with Luger. As I said earlier, even if you hide, with ‘Mana Clairvoyance’ still active, you’ll be—”
“Ha, trust me. If I hide there, Black Bass will never spot me. It’s over there.”
Leeha pointed at the place where the dinosaurs roamed.
Kidd and Luger tilted their heads for a moment. It was an approach that hadn’t occurred to anyone before.
Closest to Black Bass’s vantage point was the lake. However, lurking by the lakeside would make him easily detectable by Black Bass, who hadn’t lifted the ‘Mana Clairvoyance.’
He would be the first one discovered.
“Remember my trip to the dragon palace?”
“…… Ah!”
“Damn it.”
But if it was 『under the lake』?
‘Just stay at the deepest part of the lake. Then, when the dinosaurs begin to run rampant—’
Kidd could whisper the signal.
At the moment Black Bass lifted the ‘Mana Clairvoyance.’
Did it mean taking a reckless dive when they didn’t know when Black Bass would arrive? Certainly not.
Leeha was staring at the skill name on one side of the skill window for the first time in a while.
〈Mermaid Transformation〉
With Jellypong as the first decoy, the dummy as the second, and Luger for the third, Leeha planned to hide in a place unfathomable by ordinary means.
Black Bass falling for it was not a coincidence.
“Heh, hahaha… I see. Despite the overwhelming difference in firepower, I’ve seen the effort the Hunter made to overcome it.”
“Haha, so, is the test over or not? Does it truly end only after pulling the trigger? If you don’t finish quickly, dead Luger might kick up a fuss.”
The only casualty in this test was Luger. Just thinking of Luger’s name made Leeha chuckle.
How flustered must he have been?
Yet, when he heard Leeha’s plan and realized there was no other choice, he bravely resolved his own death. His response was so bold and swift.
‘Kidd has a way with details. And Luger… said he dodged a bullet for real.’
Evading a sniper shot once thought possible only for Bluebeard.
Though confined to when Leeha was the sniper, Luger did manage to achieve it.
If one managed to do something once, there was no reason they couldn’t do it twice.
Moreover, if a shield skill surpassed the “Force Barrier”, it implied that one could endure not just a single shot, but multiple ones.
“Pull the trigger.”
However, that was the truth until now.
There was a possibility that once the trigger was pulled, a weapon that no shield could defend against would be born.
“Uh, well, I mean, I’m a bit concerned about that too. Why does it look exactly like my face?”
“Hehehe… Don’t you know that only those who surpass their past can move forward into the future? I am merely a Bearer of the past.”
“Ah, no, I get that too! Just stop laughing like that; it’s creepy!”
The “Anthropomorphized Black Bass” had not only inherited Leeha’s sniping patterns and habits.
The reason Leeha trembled when he saw the Anthropomorphized Black Bass up close was that it perfectly replicated his own appearance.
“Pull the trigger. With that, the Bearer’s trial will come to an end.”
“Okay. Huuu…”
Leeha took a deep breath.
He wondered why an inexplicable sense of burden was creeping in.
He recalled the phrase that great power comes with great responsibility, but he soon shook his head.
‘It’s not yet great power. For the sake of even greater power…’
The Black Bass was merely a “residue” born where Zamiel was created and the Demon King’s Fragment fell.
It was a stretch to say they had become stronger after passing this quest. There were still many much stronger beings around.
These thoughts were something to worry about later.
What mattered now was to become even stronger, to focus solely on that.
“Haaa… See you outside, black.”
Click.
Leeha pulled the trigger. No gunshot rang out.
Light began to emanate from Black Bass, who had taken on a human form.
The background surrounding Leeha was melting away.
As he watched the artificially created environment reconstituting his memories of the Palaeozoic era disappear, Leeha felt a new sense of regret.
‘Before the continent was divided into Lope and Erika… I could have practiced a bit more exploration here.’
What kind of environment awaited in the eastern part of the New Continent that they would need to move to?
Wouldn’t it have been better to practice survival a bit longer here in preparation for that place?
While he thought about such things, the background had already disappeared. In the blank white space, Leeha couldn’t see either Black Bass or Jellypong.
Once he couldn’t even see his own body properly, Leeha blinked.
“Huh?”
“Spit it out, if you say you failed, I’ll smash your head. Damn, it’s been a while since I died from a gunshot—.”
Leeha found himself standing in the Bottleneck’s Smithy.
Luger, aiming a Cobalt Blue Python at him, and Kidd, slumping onto a table while sighing. And another person.
No, to be precise, a dwarf was looking at him.
“So… so the ‘Shining Hammer’ sealed it, did they.”
The NPC that had accompanied him inside Black Bass’s memories closed its eyes, full of emotion.
“Bottleneck-ajussi! Where have you been—.”
Ba-bam—!
There was no time to talk. Fanfare rang in Leeha’s head.
More important than the fanfare was the system window.
『Escape from the Abyss』
Quest completed.
Level increased.
You have gained the achievement 『In Myth』.
Recognized by the rifle 〈Black Bass〉.
Successfully integrated with the rifle 〈Black Bass〉.
Skill—surpassed the limits of the White Reaper.
All restrictions of the said skill are lifted.
Leeha had completed all the quests for the rifle known as “Black Bass!”
The seal of the legendary dwarf had been fully released.
You have gained the achievement 『Final Warning of Shining Hammer』.
Leeha had stood dumbfounded, staring at the system window. Unconsciously, a single word slipped from his lips.
“Wow…”
A level-up and two achievements? Such things didn’t even register in his mind.
He had finally accomplished the unification with Black Bass. It was akin to possessing the unlimited usage potential of the skill “White Reaper.”
How much mana would be consumed during separation? What if it consumed none at all?
Considering the expanded casting range of “Snow Storm” through Shimo’s message achievements, Leeha would, quite literally, carry destructive power equivalent to a walking nuclear weapon.
And to top it all off, the completion of every quest related to Black Bass had led to the complete release of the seal placed by the legendary dwarf.
“Heehee, what’s this—what is this! Hahaha! What on earth is this! Kidd! Luger!”
Leeha looked at them with excitement.
A white light was fading away from Kidd. This also meant he had leveled up as a reward for the “Escape from the Abyss” quest.
Luger, as well, seemed to be examining his reward with a blank expression.
With joy in his heart, Leeha sought to first check his own status.
*Shwaaah…*
At that moment, another system window appeared before Leeha’s eyes. Black Bass had been perfected. At least from the standpoint of viewing Black Bass as an individual entity, it was complete.
『Revenge Beyond Ages』
Description: “I wish to devour my origin. I wish to inflict endless torment, eternal and immortal, within my being. With the power of the Cobalt Blue Python and the Crimson Geckos, and the power of the Bearer I acknowledge… it should certainly be possible. But remember, failing to draw out its ego means merely striking the object it resides in won’t end things!”
Black Bass sought to absorb its origin.
Content: Eliminate Zamiel
Reward: ?
Condition for Failure: Death caused by Zamiel
Upon Failure: ?
Do you accept?
Upon realizing how Black Bass was created, Leeha understood that merely ending these trials and releasing all seals wouldn’t satisfy Black Bass.
‘Is it a test to make sure I can be relied upon for even more dangerous battles ahead?’ he thought.
What could be vaguely assumed back then had now been completely unveiled to Leeha.
Black Bass yearned for only one thing: Zamiel’s assassination. In other words, the removal of “Arcane Bullet”.
Leeha furrowed his brows.
Eliminate Arcane Bullet, assassinate Zamiel. It was certainly something Leeha desired.
However, what prerequisites were needed for such an endeavor?
They were conceptual entities. Only those possessing the rifle imbued with Zamiel could even perceive them.
Thus, a command to eliminate Arcane Bullet and assassinate Zamiel was no different from demanding a human capable of wielding it to take action.
“Kill the Arcane Sniper.”
“Does that mean… I have to kill Kyle?”
The quest, implying the killing of Elizabeth and Brown’s son, flickered before Leeha’s eyes.
* * *
“Heh, heehee… Seeing such a reaction from the ‘Cobalt Blue Python’ for the first time. Although I hate to admit it, it’s certainly influenced by ‘Black Bass’.”
“Hmm? Did Luger also receive a quest?”
“That’s how it connects. The ‘Crimson Geckos’ and the Cobalt Blue Python are offspring of ‘Black Bass’. Now that Black Bass has fully awakened, it’s more unusual that they wouldn’t react. Luger, you heard this as well?”
“Ugh, as annoying as it sounds, it’s not wrong. These damned firearms acknowledged us, yet we haven’t managed to awaken them all, not yet.”
Though neither of them answered Leeha’s question, their conversation provided him with enough clues to discern the situation.
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As Black Bass had stated in the illusory space, the “Cobalt Blue Python” and the “Crimson Geckos” acknowledged their users, Luger and Kidd.
However, acknowledgment and awakening were different concepts.
In contrast to Leeha, who had quickly awakened Black Bass despite not being acknowledged, Kidd and Luger found themselves in an opposite situation.
And now?
“It’s not the same quest as mine. Probably…”
The final quest to completely awaken the two firearms would have appeared.
Judging by Leeha’s Black Bass, it was likely a quest with overwhelming difficulty and challenges, similar to one requiring absorption of demonic and divine blood to reach 100% charge.
“I still have some holy water left… How unfortunate~ Since it’s not my item, I can’t give it to you―”
“We don’t need it.”
“Huh? You don’t need it?”
“You fool. Do you really think all three of us have to complete the ‘same quest’? Kidd’s and my quest will likely differ. And― in a way, it’s fortunate. Isn’t that right, Kidd?”
“Yes, that’s right. It is different from Black Bass. What it, being closer to a prototype, required for complete awakening and what our weapons, which were separated from it, require for complete awakening cannot be the same.”
“… Ah!”
Initially, talks of blood absorption and impact on essence were just one of Black Bass’s traits.
If this trait’s maximization led to unlocking a rifle’s seal and shifted into a quest for complete awakening, it was obvious that the quests for “Cobalt Blue Python” and “Crimson Geckos” would differ from Leeha’s!
“Hold on, then what’s your quest? What’s it about? Mine required serious hardship to complete―”
“It’s a secret. And since all business here is concluded, I will take my leave now.”
Leeha wondered if their quests had been set to an easier difficulty, but Kidd did not kindly share that information.
“You damn fool, you may be a step ahead with your 『Mythic』 weapon, but don’t get cocky. Even without a fully awakened Python, breaking your skull wouldn’t be a problem. Bearded old man! Stock up on shells!”
After Kidd left the smithy first, Luger also prepared his ammunition and followed suit.
“What’s this! Where are you going! Kidd! Luger!”
Were they really leaving just like that without even saying goodbye?
Leeha was momentarily taken aback by their swift actions but soon smiled.
He could predict what they might have been thinking or what expressions they might have been wearing, despite their cold facade and stern demeanor.
“Damn, you greedy bastards! Get your things fully awakened quickly! And contact me if you have any trouble!”
Leeha called out to them, standing on the threshold.
“Are you insane? I’d rather log out than contact you.”
“That’s exactly why I said it, just to tease you! Pwahaha! Take care, both of you!”
“Damn bastard.”
They were acknowledging that Leeha’s Black Bass had reached the 『Mythic』 level.
And being one step behind him, they had no desire to stay and witness it.
Leeha could vaguely sense their complex feelings of acknowledging him yet simultaneously being envious of him.
‘Because I was the same.’
How long had he agonized while watching the outstanding accomplishments stemming from their abilities?
But now, he had reached a point where he could officially claim to be the foremost of the Three Musketeers.
Until Kidd and Luger used their crystal balls to completely disappear from view, Leeha stayed at the threshold of Bottleneck Smithy, watching them for a long time.
“Now, then… let’s see.”
What remained was to check the rewards gained from this fantastical journey. Leeha accepted the quest and scrutinized his achievements.
〈Achievement: In Myth (S+)〉
Congratulations!
You have experienced the ancient past of “Middle Earth”. When God and the Devil still revealed their forms in “Middle Earth” during the primordial era, how did it feel to you?
Did it feel perilous and fraught with danger?
Were you thrilled and trembling?
If so, that’s fortunate!
Such a place will serve as a stepping stone to make you grow even stronger, and you will face the primordial secrets that still writhe in the unexplored parts of “Middle Earth”!
Remember, the myth isn’t over yet. It is you who will write our myth, the myth of “Middle Earth”.
Reward: 30 Stat Points
Skill―『Instance Dungeon Creation: Ancient Monsters』 Acquired
You are the first registrar of the 〈In Myth〉 achievement.
The names of the first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and 200% of the existing effect will be additionally applied.
Effect: 60 Stat Points
Permanent access granted to the 『Instance Dungeon: Ancient Monsters』.
“Oh!? What’s this? I can create an Instance Dungeon? Wow, and I can have permanent access too? Black! This―.”
―Hehe, indeed. By combining my power with the power of the Bearer, it will be possible to create a more perfect training ground than the fragment I have shown. Soon you could absorb the blood of those ancient life forms whose memory has nearly faded away……―
“Hmm, okay. I think I get the gist of it.”
Momentarily clearing Black Bass’s eerie voice from his mind, Leeha checked the skill window.
〈Instance Dungeon Creation: Ancient Monsters〉
Description: How different is the world now from when God and the Devil vanished from “Middle Earth”? Thanks to the power of an object imbued with primordial energy, you have been able to explore the world of that time. Based on the information and new traces obtained there, you could analyze the current “Middle Earth”!
But never think it will be as peaceful and safe as the world now. You may enter at will but not leave at will. The power hidden in primordial energy will not let you leave freely. Are you ready for the adventure?
Effect: Instance Dungeon Creation (0/5 times)
―Entrance limited to four people designated by the creator and users with entry rights
―Total entry limit of 10 people
―Automatic closure and expulsion if mission fails within 15 days of dungeon creation
(Located within the instance dungeon even when logged out.)
―Recommended entry level: 370
Mana: 1
Cooldown: 50 days
“Hmm, indeed. The fact that Black Bass mentioned ‘training’… This is a place for adventure and leveling up. But if there are no users other than me with entry rights… It’s just me and four people I’ve designated, right? A five-person party must clear some quest within 15 days―Wait, what’s this!?”
Looking over the conditions of the instance dungeon in the skill window, Leeha was startled.
Now understanding the generation limit, entry limit, and that users must complete a quest within the instance dungeon, his eyes were drawn to the recommended entry level.
“Three hundred seventy? Crazy, there’s got to be a mistake. A bug or something?”
It was only natural for Leeha to think of the recommended entry level as a bug.
When Alexander was doing a TV interview, he gave some hints about his level.
‘Though he answered the MC’s question with just a gaze and silence―it was clear. Alexander’s current estimated level is around 330.’
When did he ever reach the initial top level of 300? Since then, he had only increased his level by thirty.
Even in the official “Middle Earth” rankings, where battles occur solely by level, it was widely believed that nobody broke through level 300 apart from the top 10.
‘In reality, not even the top ten. According to Hwayeon, Ram Hwajung scarcely reached level 300 after the recent battle with Tiamat.’
Ram Hwajung being at levels 298 and 299 was quite some time ago.
She barely reached level 300 after slaughtering several chromatic dragons and countless chimeras during the Tiamat battle.
Since Ram Hwajung, ranked 6th, had finally reached 300, it meant Shin Nara ranked 8th, still needed some more time.
‘Then what about Chiyou, who is ranked 7th?’
Leeha felt a new question arise, but there was no way to find out at that moment.
The important thing was that the recommended level for this instance dungeon was a whopping 370.
“Tsk, well, reaching this level so quickly probably means they’re ahead of the developers’ scenario by several years. Makes sense, I guess.”
―Are you afraid?―
When Leeha muttered, the voice of Black Bass came through. Listening to the quiet laughter mixed in his tone, Leeha sighed.
“No, it’s not so much fear as… I don’t know. It feels like I can’t just dip my toes in and pull out. If this stays even when I log out… It seems like once I enter, I either have to clear the quest or hide for 15 days, or in the worst case, die to get out―.”
At the very least, it wasn’t something to attempt lightheartedly.
Leeha complained to Black Bass, but his expression wasn’t entirely grim.
In Middle Earth, wasn’t the biggest difference by level the stats?
‘In other words, combining the achievement modifiers that a Level 370 player would typically have… that should mean there’s a possibility of clearing it, right?’
Then how about himself?
If he could find enough skilled individuals with determination, wouldn’t it be possible to give it a try soon?
“Because I have this.”
Among the rewards he received after the 〈In Myth〉 achievement, Leeha touched another skill located next to the instance dungeon creation skill.
〈White Reaper〉
Description: “The single bullet that tracks, reflects, and annihilates all snow and ice!”
An attack that has inherited part of the power of the 《Arcane Bullet》, it derives its power from the gun used to fire it.
Usable Occupations: Arcane Sniper or White Reaper
Usage Conditions: 100% Synchronization with the Gun in Use
『Current Synchronization Level 100% (Details)』
Effect: Beam attack equivalent to 200% of the user’s attack power
Mana: Usable when holding more than 50% of total mana
〈White Reaper〉, whose restrictions were lifted.
Not only had the attack power increased from 120% to 200%, but the mana consumed during its initial usage had also been removed, making it a ‘complete skill’.
Although using the first shot consumed about 50% of the total mana available, this was not considered a burden.
‘All I need is 〈Snow Storm〉 after all.’
White Reaper wasn’t meant for ultra-long-distance sniping. It was a skill best suited for large-scale warfare.
Just scattering some snowfall over the heads of the incoming overwhelming forces would suffice.
Then, small white threads that follow would slice through the entire space.
“Heh heh, I can’t wait to use it. With this, even Black Bass…”
―You are always welcome if it’s to gnaw away at the Demon King’s Fragment.―
With Black Bass’s confident voice, Leeha smiled broadly.
Would Black Bass really be able to avoid an attack that constructs itself not as a point or line, but as a plane, or even further, a volume?
“You seem confident, lord.”
Bottleneck spoke up.
Even when Kidd and Luger left, and Leeha shared idle banter with Black Bass, the dwarf bore a serious expression. Now, his face was even more resolute.
Leeha normally wanted to joke with him, but now wasn’t the time.
“Do you have the confidence to protect… our ancestors’ hope?”
He understood very well why Bottleneck wore such an expression and possessed such a tone that demanded determination from Leeha.
The dwarf who had reduced Black Bass to merely a heroic-grade item.
The warning message from ‘Shining Hammer’, who was related to Bottleneck by blood, was gravid with foreboding content.
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Final Warning of Shining Hammer (S+)
In the end, you’ve brought about trouble. I don’t know who you are, but… this gun is a dangerous weapon. It undoubtedly possesses an ancient consciousness.
It desires to destroy everything in the world, wishing eventually to consume even the one who created it. Such a weapon must not roam the world.
I, shining Hammer, shall embed my body into its seal, but it’s regrettable that my vessel is too small to completely seal its myth.
No… If you are hearing this warning, it means my blood has already become useless.
How the weapon passed from the blacksmith is up to the user; I only quietly hope you won’t bring ruin upon Middle Earth.
If you think you might become the creature and fail to control the ancient consciousness, please seal it again, in my name, shining Hammer.
Reward: 60 Stat Points
Weapon ― 『Black Bass』 Re-sealing Possible
(Condition: Achieve 100% friendship with Dwarves of 『Legend』 grade or higher)
(This is an achievement without a Hall of Fame.)
“Yes. I’m confident. What Bottleneck’s ancestor worried about… it won’t be an issue for which I’d have to ask Bottleneck for something.”
Leeha spoke resolutely.
Bottleneck gazed at Leeha with calm eyes.
He did not press further or seek affirmation from Leeha. Black Bass listened to the conversation between Leeha and Bottleneck and laughed.
―Heh, the guy had a paranoid delusion. He must have confused me with Zamiel.―
“Mm, but it’s not completely wrong, is it? Black, you do want to devour Zamiel. After all, you were born in the place where Zamiel was born―”
The expression “the one who created it” isn’t wrong either.
From a certain perspective, you could say Zamiel created Black Bass.
If Black Bass’s desire to kill Zamiel were its wish, then surely the Dwarf known as Shining Hammer read Black Bass’s character correctly.
Moreover, to have released the seal like this, what types and amounts of blood did Black Bass desire?
Had Kijung not procured the holy grail containing Ahlo’s blood, a bloodstorm would have ravaged the entire continent.
‘But since we resolved it without the significant sacrifices you feared, please forgive us. However…’
Why is the reward of the achievement itself the re-sealing of Black Bass?
‘It means not to fall into such… temptations akin to a devil’s lure, without regard for the means and measures necessary to achieve a goal.’
With that thought, Leeha suddenly recalled the message Bahamut had left.
The saying that Kyle was being absorbed by Zamiel, perhaps it also applied to his relationship with Black Bass and himself?
『Black Bass might devour me.』
“Oh, such a horrible thought… If so, then you’ll die by my hand, okay?”
―Heh, what are you suddenly talking about?―
“Anyway! Ahem, don’t worry, Bottleneck-ssi! You should be thankful for having the opportunity to refine and synthesize such a magnificent weapon! Don’t you think? Still, how can a so-called master craftsman be so fearful?”
Leeha deliberately cheered up his voice and patted Bottleneck on the shoulder.
The Dwarf, receiving solace from the much younger human, wore a smile.
“Say no more! Haha, truly, I almost feel like visiting Hell’s Anvil these days. Who knew I’d touch one of the ancient consciousnesses!”
“Exactly, exactly! This isn’t just a simple ‘Legend’ anymore! Hee-hee, it’s a story from the mythic age now!”
〈Black Bass, companion of Primordial Myths〉
『Non-tradable』
Description: The awakened consciousness has regained all of its power. Tormented over ages and suppressed over long periods, this consciousness now seeks vengeance against the cause of its suffering. Its fangs won’t spare the living, the dead souls, god, or the Devil. Once all its objectives are achieved, it will transcend a mere consciousness.
Attack: (User’s Agility * 12)
Effect: Agility +50
Absorb and Release Target’s 『Attributes』 (one-time limit)
(All other effects of the previous rank are inherited.)
An extremely simple description.
Yet it was, in Leeha’s eyes, a perfect explanation.
‘Attack power is twelve times the agility. Absolutely insane. Even the additional agility points have doubled from 25 to 50.’
Moreover, all additional effects of the previous rank are retained.
Ignoring essence-targeted damage and physical armor!
Though magical defenses such as shields or barriers aren’t ignored, by now, it’s meaningless.
‘Breaking them with damage suffices.’
Various damage-boosting skills accompany Black Bass. With Snow Storm and White Reaper’s linkage, it could deliver near-infinite strikes within a short time.
If that, too, were ignored?
There exists the “Singular Destruction” skill.
At least when it came to damage, destruction, and attack power, words like those mattered so little to Leeha that he was fully prepared.
“Huu… Black, is it you who chose this ‘trait’?”
—Haha, indeed. Even the Bearer knows that all blood cannot be the same. I will absorb the most developed and evolved genetic traits from the blood of those who tear through my skin.—
“Hmm, the explanation is kind of gruesome… but okay. I get it.”
This was one reason Leeha’s mouth remained agape.
Absorbing traits? That wasn’t just a trait of a ‘Ghibrid’. Even Ghibrid can only create a chimera with such traits.
To be precise, ‘Ghibrid’ cannot use the traits of others.
‘But this… for sure. I’ll be the one using it.’
It would be a skill that could only be created for a single use, but at least it was something Leeha could use himself.
It was an effect that perfectly matched the Black Bass, which constantly spoke of devouring everything.
“But, you know, if you had told me in advance that such an ability would be added, I might have just captured Zamiel right away or something. Don’t you think? Why make someone brace themselves only to add this at the last moment?”
—Bearer, you also know. Depending on one-time skills and luck… Haha, you can’t defeat my original form.—
Listening to Black Bass, Leeha chuckled as well.
Relying solely on skills wouldn’t guarantee victory. But with things as they were, this battle would end with just one bullet.
“Whether it’s me or Kyle… it’ll only be a one-shot match.”
The shooter would live, and the shot one would die.
Leeha felt a tingling sensation for the first time in a long while. It was a completely different feeling from the trials of Browless or Elizabeth.
It resembled the sniper battle to calm the maddened White Reaper, Shimo, but with much higher difficulty and tension.
‘Anyway, when Kyle uses Arcane Bullet, it’s over. No one can say for sure what will happen if it hits.’
What if it resulted in something beyond simple death?
—Kyle, are you talking about the one who uses my original form?—
Just as Leeha was about to simulate the battle in his mind, Black Bass spoke. Leeha responded affirmatively.
Black Bass laughed wildly.
The glint of the bolt frightened Bottleneck, who was nearby.
—Bearer… haven’t you forgotten my promise already.—
“What? What are you talking about? Removing Zamiel! That’s right, isn’t it?”
—Yes. I only wish to devour my original form.—
“Yeah! So that’s why—… huh?”
『Revenge Beyond Countless Ages』
Content: Eliminate Zamiel
Leeha opened the quest window once more to confirm. Revenge Beyond Countless Ages, the content was the elimination of Zamiel.
“Not Arcane Sniper… Just kill Zamiel?”
Zamiel was like Leeha’s Black Bass.
Leeha himself, who could use firearms, heard the voice, but to other users, it merely seemed like Leeha was talking to himself.
In other words, only Kyle could see Zamiel, could he not?
—Yes. I have no interest in humans who are with my original form. Haha… I wonder if there was a misunderstanding.—
“What, what… misunderstanding! I intended to do this from the beginning. Ha, hot!”
Leeha quickly responded, cutting off Black Bass’s words.
What Black Bass wanted was simply the killing and absorption of Zamiel. It had nothing to do with Kyle.
But Leeha could not see Zamiel.
If he could not see, he could not hit.
“What on earth is this?”
Leeha was also hesitant about killing Kyle.
Yet, with Bahamut’s death and this quest, Leeha was barely steeling himself… the quest content wasn’t even that!
‘Do I have to become Arcane Sniper and somehow hold that rifle to see Zamiel’s spirit-like existence and shoot? This is madness! Is this even possible? Is there no other way?’
What on earth was the sequence for clearing this?
Holding onto Black Bass, which offered no further hints or methods, Leeha fretted for a while.
The level of specifications had been enhanced to an unprecedented degree, and he had obtained a ridiculous amount of information.
However, amid the flood of information, there were inevitably side effects.
Fortunately, there was something that momentarily wiped Leeha’s confused mind.
―Hyung!
―Oh, Kijung.
―We’ve finally received the long-awaited contact. They’re giving us the key!
The long-awaited message had come from Kijung at last.
―What— “The Key of Jannate”? Is the conversation already over?
―Hyung, I’m a cardinal of the “Council of the Nine Cardinals!”
―Don’t act so cheeky. You wouldn’t have gotten it without me, would you?
―Hehe, I know, hyung. Anyway, the Pope is summoning everyone including the old eastern expedition members, so you should come too.
Answering Kijung’s teasing whispers, Leeha left the Bottleneck Smithy.
Was the Black Bass quest difficult? Was the wealth of information rather overwhelming?
‘It’s times like these that you need to clear your mind.’
Leeha knew that you could fill it by emptying it.
His experiences in Middle Earth had taught him that merely sitting and brooding was not the answer.
What remained was only to trust himself, believe in his achievements, and keep moving forward.
‘Let’s go.’
Leeha’s steps felt lighter than ever.
* * *
“Ugh…….”
“Kyle!”
Chiyou turned around at the sudden commotion.
She caught sight of Kyle holding his head and staggering, with Elizabeth and Brown supporting him.
Igor and Pyro appeared flustered, looking back and forth between Chiyou and Kyle. However, Chiyou did not panic.
She quietly observed the NPCs for a moment before turning her head away.
Next to her stood a figure in tattered clothing. His exposed arms and legs were decaying, and his skin was a dull greyish-blue, making it hard to determine his original skin color.
“Kaztor. Is that the encroachment you mentioned back then?”
Chiyou asked.
“I don’t think…….”
Kaztor, who had been resurrected by the power of Pyrot-Cocri, bowed politely towards Chiyou as he answered.
“Then what is it?”
Chiyou asked, slightly surprised.
“Encroachment occurs when there’s a reaction from Zamiel……. But this is not it….”
“What!? Then something else went wrong?”
The reason Chiyou didn’t react strongly despite Kyle’s suffering was that she had witnessed similar instances several times before.
Since perfectly reviving Kaztor as an undead, she was able to analyze this phenomenon, learning that Kyle was being encroached upon by Zamiel.
“I will find out….”
Kaztor staggered forward, approaching Kyle. Chiyou frowned as she watched them.
‘This is troublesome. If only he’d succumb to Zamiel quickly.’
The main reason she almost welcomed Kyle’s suffering was because he was difficult to control.
‘The Arcane Sniper must continue, right?’
Instead, Chiyou thought it would be more convenient if Zamiel dominated Kyle.
‘I’ve also learned the method from Kaztor. As long as Zamiel appears…….’
Chiyou recalled everything that Kaztor had done.
‘We can transfer Zamiel to the fetus of human NPCs. Then I can negotiate with him.’
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The exact method Kaztor used on the pregnant Elizabeth.
Though it wasn’t acquired in a skill format and unable to practice it, she understood the mechanism, so she believed he could somehow resolve it.
Chiyou thought that if she succeeded just once, it would be generated as her own unique skill, and she could use it continuously thereafter.
“So as Zamiel, I must complete this assimilation. I can’t wait for Arcane Sniper from the fetal stage to become an adult. If only it could learn to devour human NPCs on its own, there’d be nothing better.”
She was certain it was possible.
Her calculations couldn’t be wrong.
She believed it, yet no matter how calculated it might be, urgency lingered with that belief.
It was because Elizabeth had become more haggard.
What if Elizabeth died? Chiyou’s power over the Brown family would be rendered useless.
“Kyle doesn’t have as much affection for his father as his mother does. It’s meaningless to turn Brown into a vampire. Ultimately, if Elizabeth dies… Hmm, could there be a way to extend Elizabeth’s life through Brown? But he won’t listen.”
It was still a difficult level of persuasion for Chiyou.
Brown cared about Elizabeth yet refused all methods Chiyou suggested.
He was so steadfast that Igor once attempted to behead him. Naturally, even for Chiyou, he was not an easy character to manipulate.
“If he came this far for the love of his wife, surely he’d do anything to save her, wouldn’t he?”
From that point, Chiyou pondered.
Why was Brown behaving that way?
“Does he have something to believe in?”
What reasons could he have for acting like that after coming all the way here?
“Is that so?”
“What’s the matter, Kaztor?”
Kaztor suddenly spread both arms and raised them toward the sky.
Chiyou, watching an undead pattern of behavior she had never seen before, warily asked.
“I figured it out… Zamiel’s, avatar, remnants, residue, haha.”
There was no longer any greed to control Arcane Sniper. However, was there a scholar’s curiosity and sense of achievement from having researched Arcane Bullet his whole life?
Kaztor’s decayed, bluish-gray face cracked into a grin.
“Explain what you mean in simple terms.”
Chiyou queried.
Kaztor revealed the facts he had learned through Zamiel.
In the place where Zamiel was created, there were also other things ‘born’ together, and they had finally awakened.
“… Again, is it Ha Leeha!? Damn it! Pyro, Igor! Prepare immediately!”
“What―.”
“We’re moving! Further inside!”
For Chiyou, it was never welcome news.
Because of the two curses she had received from Bahamut, her sense of urgency only increased.
〈Achievement: Eternal Nemesis of the metal dragons (R-)〉
Compared to the former Bahamut, I am immensely lacking. However, even if I am lacking, our kin should not be underestimated.
As the authority of the Platinum Dragon and the elder of all Metal Dragons, I command:
Until the existence of 『Chiyou』 vanishes, unleash an eternal, unlimited wrath of our kin upon the target.
Even if all of Middle Earth protects you, we shall pursue you. And we shall annihilate you.
Reward: 50 Stat Points
Familiarity with Metal Dragons: -100%
All Stats -20% in combat against Adult-level or higher Metal Dragons
You are the first registrant of 〈Eternal Nemesis of the metal dragons〉 achievement.
The first three registrants of this achievement were recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the effects were enhanced by an additional 200%.
Effect: 100 stat points
When fighting a metal dragon at the adult level or higher, all stats are reduced by 40%.
“It’s utterly repulsive! What’s the use of 150 stat points?”
Chiyou bit her lips nervously.
Although there was a reward for this so-called achievement, the penalty it came with was so significant that she couldn’t stand the thought of it.
“I knew the leader of the dragons would have some abilities… but in this case, the worst opponent would be Alexander. No, there’s also that damned little girl.”
Given her current location, it was unlikely that the metal dragons could launch a combined attack.
However, it was certain encounters with user’s partner dragons would occur.
Such a scenario would reduce her stats by 60%, making the Ancient Dragon Bailephus and the Adult Dragon Arzenmacht formidable threats just by their presence.
In battles against other users, even if the dragons were merely present, it made the battle virtually impossible.
“Ha Leeha or Lark might also have penalties, and maybe Alexander and Bailephus too, who knows. But we don’t have a chromatic dragon. We can’t be sure if it would work through the undead either, damn!”
Even though she received a penalty herself after killing Bahamut, Tiamat wouldn’t be any less challenging.
Moreover, there was a clear statement on Tiamat’s death.
“She will not spare those who sealed her,” and no matter how low one estimated its power, it would exceed her penalty.
〈Achievement: Pure Continuing Fury (R-)〉
Congratulations!
You have slain the metal dragon Leader 『Bahamut』. Your prowess, having defeated the esteemed leader of the metal dragons, will be known across Middle Earth.
Yet, spreading fame does not always bring good fortune. The metal dragons will strive to find the one who killed their king, trying to revive a new 『Bahamut』. Now, you cannot cease fighting the metal dragons; it is kill or be killed. Your abilities as a Platinum Dragon Slayer will be tested from now on.
Reward: 50 stat points
Buff ― 『Aura of the Dragon Slayer』 acquired
Metal dragon affinity: -100%
Debuff ― 『Aura of Platinum』 acquired
You are the first registrant of the 〈Pure Continuing Fury〉 achievement.
The first three registrants of this achievement were recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the effects were enhanced by an additional 200%.
Effect: 100 stat points
“The 『Aura of the Dragon Slayer』, I couldn’t care less about such a buff weakening metal dragons. What’s crucial is the 『Aura of Platinum』, this maddening, unremovable debuff―”
『Daily disclosure of coordinates by Bahamut』
These two R- rank achievements were precisely why Chiyou couldn’t even muster a smile.
It wasn’t just a simple disclosure of her location, but the disclosure of her coordinates!
When it comes to spatial skills, dragons surpass ordinary users. However, unfortunate as it might be, there was one individual among users who could rival that.
Sage Hyein.
Chiyou remembered him.
“They said Bahamut hasn’t been born yet. But once born…”
They would immediately identify her location.
And if they came swarming now, there would be no way to stop them.
Her best option was to move to a place impervious to spatial travel, beyond the eastern frontier of the new continent.
But this too was a formidable challenge. For her enemies included not only the metal dragons and the 〈Sacred Alliance〉.
“The Demon King’s Fragments are also on this side. We haven’t yet encountered them, but if Le seeks revenge… if Kyle becomes their target while we’re logged out, the risk is high.”
With all Demon King’s Fragments resurrected, there was no knowing what chaos they might unleash.
She was able to objectively assess the power structure of Middle Earth and acknowledged that her force was currently the weakest.
Excluding the asymmetrical power of 《Arcane Bullet》, she compared herself to a fragile weed, struggling to survive even a day.
“It’s okay. As long as I know my weaknesses, I can compensate for them.”
“What?”
“It means you should do your job properly. Have you finished contacting Czar?”
“Heh, of course. Reinforcements are coming too. They’ll all come over.”
“Very good.”
Reinforcements were needed as soon as possible. Even if it meant one more person, even if it meant one minute sooner.
The guild that Igor originally led, 〈Czar〉.
She had enticed Igor to join them into her force.
The Czar was not just a single guild. On a larger scale, it was one of Russia’s national projects that Russia was backing—raising Igor.
“If they could receive serious capital investment from them…”
Expanding their influence was no chore.
But what if Igor’s force grew too large?
No matter how much of a 〈Vampire Queen〉 she was, she would be overwhelmed by her own forces. She was well aware of that fact.
―Sasuke! How’s the classification of the applicants going? When on earth is it going to be finished?
―Ha! It will be finished soon, oka-san!
―Finish quickly. We don’t have time, hurry! You wouldn’t want things to be reported to otou-san, right?
―Of course not. Just a bit more time―
―I’ll give you three days. Finish as soon as possible.
Therefore, she did not neglect to establish an internal force that would follow only her.
Despite Ha Leeha’s writing, there were many users who wanted to side with Chiyou.
“New Continent’s east, it’s good for hiding, but considering future activities, shouldn’t we avoid ‘that side’?”
“Oh my, is it possible for you, Igor, to be scared?”
Just as they were about to set off with the NPCs, Igor grabbed Chiyou.
Knowing why Igor was saying this, she provoked him with a smile.
“Keh! Nonsense! It’s not that I’m scared! It’s just that over there―.”
“I also agree with Igor. The monsters on which even our skills didn’t work were… something that is difficult for us to handle with our current strength.”
Pyro had been playing with fire in his hand, turning it on and off while looking at Chiyou.
“If we include you two with me, we would deal with an Ancient Dragon effortlessly, yet you’re afraid of such creatures? At night, you two alone can easily handle an Ancient Dragon.”
“That’s when skills work. Moreover, their numbers are….”
Pyro’s Adam’s apple bobbed slightly.
What they had encountered on the New Continent’s east happened just before the negotiation with Le regarding Bahamut’s disposal.
Seeing Igor and Pyro, who had shown a mere trivial reaction to the Demon King’s Fragment, filled with fear, Chiyou pondered for a moment.
“It’s fine. We won’t need to fight them. First, there’s an old castle nearby that the vampires used to use, so let’s gather what’s left there—the others can detect ‘those things’ and avoid them.”
“Are you really going to go, knowing that if things go wrong, we all might―.”
“We have to have such things in place so they can’t recklessly intrude towards New Continent’s east, right? Remember, we don’t have much time either. We must finish preparations as quickly as possible in New Continent’s east―.”
Chiyou interrupted Pyro and moved forward once again.
With no grounds to express dissent, Kaztor and the NPCs trailed behind her.
Entering the dense, shadowy forest, she uttered one final word.
“We must intercept them heading towards 〈Laputa〉… no, getting something from 〈Laputa〉.”
Tap, tap, tap.
It was evident that something significant was there.
Chiyou couldn’t let it pass unnoticed. Given New Continent’s east’s characteristic of not allowing a large number of people to move at once, if it became a conflict of fewer numbers against fewer numbers, they surely had to capitalize on it.
Chiyou saw this as the crucial point against Leeha.
Fortunately, Chiyou wasn’t the only one who harbored such thoughts.
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“So what you’re saying is…”
“Yes, it means that this expedition to ‘Laputa’ cannot move as a single group, Your Grace.”
Leeha replied, bowing his head.
There was a brief commotion beside him.
Many users had already gathered in the Pope’s office.
Kidd and Luger, who were part of the New Continent Eastern Expedition squad, were absent, but Alexander, Bailephus, the guide Fernand, and the NPC Browless were all present.
In addition, C9 members like Kijung and those who had assisted Kijung, including Raphaela, were also in attendance.
“Is there a reason?”
Alexander asked Leeha, but Leeha turned to Fernand before replying.
“The last expedition followed a path already pioneered by Fernand-ssi, Alexander-ssi, and Lee Jiwon-ssi, correct?”
“Yes, that’s right.”
“The destination was just one – ‘the East of the New Continent,’ and there were predecessors like Kaztor, whose traces we followed.”
“Correct.”
“And who was there on that path back then?”
“Chiyou was present.”
Leeha’s expression was gentle, and Fernand answered without any tension.
As Fernand replied, Leeha turned his gaze to Alexander. Alexander, observing the conversation between Leeha and Fernand, understood Leeha’s intention.
“Indeed, if it’s Chiyou, she’s likely waiting. So the plan is to split into more than three teams.”
“Exactly. She’s certain to be anticipating us, knowing we’re heading to ‘Laputa’, whether we’re going in or coming out.”
The others were aware of the route Fernand found, and unlike in the past when they had to rush, they were now waiting at that location.
Moreover, hadn’t they been ambushed already when heading to Laputa from Saur Land?
Although the location of ‘Red Zeppelin’ was relocated afterwards, the possibility of Chiyou ambushing remained.
Leeha’s speculation was simple yet logically connected to a significant proposal.
If Chiyou were to launch an attack?
One needed to identify the enemy’s weaknesses and exploit them.
In other words, they should advance in separated teams before the enemy, who still constituted a ‘minority’, managed to fully assemble their forces.
“Then, wouldn’t it be better to just go in a large group, hyung? If we have to fight anyway―”
“No, it’s to avoid fighting. That’s the priority. Fight only when there’s no other choice.”
“Why?”
“Because of ‘Arcane Bullet’.”
Having 50 or 100 people rush in wouldn’t improve the situation.
If threatened by Arcane Bullet, no one would be able to act rashly.
Ultimately, whether in a group or split into teams, there was a chance of getting stuck due to Chiyou, as Leeha pointed out. Therefore, it led to the conclusion that they should divide into as many parties as possible to explore the Eastern New Continent at an appropriate level.
The users, already somewhat informed about Arcane Bullet, did not oppose Leeha’s proposal. Knowing they must heed Leeha’s words, the next problem emerged.
How should the teams be composed?
If they were to split into teams, who should carry ‘Key of Jannate’?
“Hmm, regarding that, I have something to say.”
“Director?”
Browless, who had remained silent, stepped forward.
An NPC who had not appeared during the war with Tiamat.
Only when the war was nearly over, there was talk of them taking charge of a few chimeras somewhere, but Leeha had not witnessed it directly.
“Come to think of it, Kidd or Luger didn’t mention anything. If the director had made a significant contribution, they wouldn’t have stayed silent.”
Wasn’t Browless the NPC Kidd favored most on Middle Earth? If such a person had said nothing?
In reality, it could be said that Browless had no striking achievements in the battle against Tiamat.
Leeha had passed it over without much thought, but now, it piqued his curiosity.
Why hadn’t Browless made any significant contributions?
“Indeed. After reporting to General Ewin, the new continent—”
Thunk, thunk, thunk.
Just as Browless was about to speak, the door to the Pope’s office made a loud noise.
“Hmm? Who might…”
The Pope’s curiosity piqued as Browless was launching into his story, and a voice came from outside the door.
『Your Holiness, someone urgently wishes to join the meeting. This person is—』
『Inside, discussing team formations and whatnot, that’s Ha Leeha’s voice, isn’t it? Huhahaha! The thinking is similar. To divide the teams, strong ranged dealers should be central! Although you claim the bullets are magical, you will want to avoid close combat. Therefore, we need factors that can counter from a distance on our side, causing tension and preventing them from approaching easily. Ha Leeha, Luger, and Kidd’s Three Musketeers should be on different teams, and, oh, it would be best if Bobae joins this time—』
『But first, you should reveal your affiliation!』
Interrupting the papal NPC’s voice, a man’s urgent tone spoke, only to be followed by a woman’s calm voice soothing him so users could hear it.
“Please… come in first,” the Pope said.
With the Pope’s words, the office door opened.
Beside the startled papal auxiliary NPC, two users appeared.
One was clad in gleaming armor and a white cape billowing, while the other wore a shabby tunic unsuitable for the occasion.
“I apologize for greeting you without formality after such a long time, Your Holiness.”
“No, it’s fine. I am grateful that the hero of this Tiamat battle is already taking action.”
The Pope smiled as he raised them up from their kneeling position. They faced the many users present in the hall.
Shin Nara exchanged eye contact with Bobae standing next to Kijung, but the one in the tunic was looking at someone else.
“Hey there, cursed comrade. Looking good?”
“Haha! That’s quite a hello. It was foolish of me to worry about your mental state even for a second. It seems the damage wasn’t light.”
Leeha could only smile wryly at Lark’s audacious greeting.
Having lost all his defenses, including his armor, Lark was unable to even don the cape of the Virtuous Knight Order.
Other users might have wondered why Lark’s attire looked like that, but Leeha knew.
“It all completely melted away… Everything disappeared when you were truly bare.”
The ‘Acid Breath’ of the Black Dragon Onyx actually degraded the durability of items, and because Lark had been exposed to it for an extended period without any defense, he lost all his gear.
Lark glanced at his waist as Leeha stared.
“At least this is intact.”
The single item he had not lost was his sword. Despite the contrast, it suited him in an almost ironic way, adding to its appeal.
Even in his scantily clad state and in the presence of the Pope, Lark’s fervor remained unyielded, mostly because of that sword, Leeha thought.
“Hmm, good to see you looking well, Lark. But for now, we are in the middle of a discussion about team composition, so we’ll postpone that for later.”
“Ah, Alexander, if I might interrupt.”
“Hmm?”
“Let’s have a quick shopping trip and make time to talk. Sorry for interrupting your speech, Browless.”
“No, it’s fine. The hero of this Tiamat battle should have priority. I too want to hear your thoughts first and then continue.”
Lark, with a very apologetic face, bowed his head to Browless. Looking at Lark momentarily lifting his hat in a gesture of reassurance, Browless returned the gesture, saying he understood.
The one who truly felt displeased was Alexander.
What the idea from Lark was about and what Browless had been about to say were secondary; Alexander grimaced due to a single word.
“Shopping?”
Though Alexander’s tone changed, Lark paid no attention to it and looked at the Pope.
There was another reason he went straight to the Papal chambers without any equipment.
Leeha, listening to Lark’s words and the term ‘shopping,’ realized what Lark aimed to do.
―Did you come to be naked for that?
As soon as Leeha whispered, the Pope looked at Lark with a warm smile.
“I have heard enough about the exploits of the Knights of the Rainbow and your fame as a Dragon Slayer. In the name of the ‘Sacred Alliance’, I must bolster your spirits with all the cooperation of various countries. If you need any supplies, I will support you with whatever might be necessary. Of course, those who played significant roles in sealing Tiamat—Ha Leeha, Alexander, and Bailephus as well—should receive the same support.”
“I am relieved that even my inadequate self could be of help. I, Lark, although I am a knight serving without greed and guarding the capital of Minis… will never forget the grace bestowed by the ‘Sacred Alliance’ and Your Holiness the Pope for the fierce battles to come.”
Lark immediately knelt before the Pope. Observers were momentarily impressed by the seemingly sacred display of his high loyalty.
―Ah, naked! Came lightly attired so he can take only the best and match the rest of the items, right? Let’s see what’s in the papal treasury~
If not for Leeha’s whisper to Lark, Leeha might have been moved by his attitude.
Leeha chuckled under his breath.
The very reason he had arrived with merely a sword in hand was due to the ‘reward for the Tiamat War’.
Since it had not progressed properly, its main entity could only be the ‘Sacred Alliance,’ as everyone expected, and naturally, the papal authority, which played the largest role in forming the organization, was the source.
〈Achievement: Tiamat’s Curse (R-)〉
I will remember you. Along with the Dragon Slayer who sealed me, I will never forget the ones who aided him. Bahamut dies but passes down a lineage, but I do not.
And I will never be caught off guard by you again. Suffer forever in the chains of endless curse. When I return, I will burn even your most precious souls…
Reward: 50 stat points
Damage dealt to Tiamat: -30%
Affinity with chromatic dragons: -100%
All stats during combat with adult or higher chromatic dragons: -20%
You are the second registrant of the 〈Achievement: Tiamat’s Curse〉.
The Hall of Fame records up to the third registrant of the achievement, with an additional 200% of existing effects applied.
Effect: 100 stat points
Damage dealt to Tiamat: -60%
All stats during combat with adult or higher chromatic dragons: -40%
‘Just looking at the benefits, the penalties are terrifying,’
Leeha chuckled bitterly, observing Tiamat’s curse achievement.
Like Chiyou, who killed Bahamut and received severe penalties, Leeha faced penalties as well.
If Tiamat were to resurrect, Leeha’s attacks would practically not affect it. With a 90% attack reduction, even Leeha, who prevailed through sheer damage, wouldn’t have much choice.
‘Tch, likely because my accumulated damage is the highest, receiving the second achievement must mean that Lark received it as well, right?’
Even more, being the person who sealed Tiamat, Lark naturally might hold additional achievements and penalties fitting for the title of ‘Dragon Slayer’. If that were the case?
Lark would forever remain an enemy to chromatic dragons.
‘Ah! Anyway, looking at the affinity scale, mine should also be…minus 400%, so we’re in the same boat?’
Lark and Leeha had an irreconcilable gulf with the chromatic dragons as well. In fact, Leeha was an older enemy than Lark.
However, by killing Onyx and gaining an absurd authority to participate in selecting the next elder of the chromatic dragons, the achievement gave Leeha a glimmer of hope.
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〈Achievement: Kuzgunak’sh’s Last Wish (S+)〉
Congratulations!
You fulfilled the desire of the Ancient red dragon 『Kuzgunak’sh』.
“I have dedicated my life to liberating the queen. Even when accused by all dragons, including my kin, the Red Dragons, under Onyx’s command… I worked for the future of the Chromatic Dragons. However, due to my shortcomings, I let the queen be manipulated by trifles like the Demon King’s Fragment. It’s miserable and resentful that I couldn’t create an opportunity to serve a truly strong queen free from Onyx’s oppression… It’d be better to kill me. Kill me and reseal our incomplete queen once more. If Le were to place my head before the queen, even in death, I wouldn’t truly die. If you, who now hear my wish, join forces with me, you won’t have to witness the queen being manipulated in death. I believe my unfortunate kin will surely understand me.”
Even at the moment when his Dragon Heart was shattered and he saw his head severed from his body, Kuzgunak’sh expressed concern only for the Chromatic Dragons. His final wish, until the moment of his death, for a better future for the Chromatic Dragons was to kill Tiamat!
He succeeded in assaulting her from within Tiamat as promised. The damage Kuzgunak’sh inflicted on Tiamat was akin to the greatest harm you inflicted during your lifetime.
As the oldest among the Red Dragons and the most eccentric among the Chromatic Dragons, evaluations of Kuzgunak’sh among the Chromatic Dragons will gradually change.
Reward: 30 Stat Points
Gained the authority to request a ceasefire during a battle with a red dragon.
(This is an achievement without a Hall of Fame.)
“Kuzgunak’sh… It’s no surprise that my accumulated damage ranking against Tiamat is number one.”
It was an aspect not easily understood by others who experienced the Tiamat battle, including Leeha himself.
Why was he ranked first, despite not actually causing any damage?
Was it because Leeha’s 〈White Reaper〉 exploded at the moment Tiamat’s Dragon Heart was destroyed, and Onyx was absorbing the heart’s power?
From that perspective, it doesn’t explain the actions of Bailephus, who ranked second, and Alexander, who ranked third. And, of course, it was a reasonable conclusion.
“Who would have guessed that the damage caused to Kuzgunak’sh while alive would transpose to damage inflicted on Tiamat?”
Leeha was ranked first for a simple reason.
He was the one who destroyed Kuzgunak’sh’s Dragon Heart.
It made perfect sense that Bailephus, who strove tirelessly to create such a situation, and Alexander, who sustained the restraint on Kuzgunak’sh for a long time, ranked third, with no other users ranking below that.
Lark’s swift control of the atmosphere in the hall and his intention to head towards the Vatican treasure chamber was not something Leeha would let go unnoticed.
“Lark-ssi, we should at least finish our discussion first. We can always choose items or rewards before departure, right? We need to decide how many teams to split into and who will be in each team first. Afterwards, it’s better to select rewards.”
Leeha could not leave users not targeted for a reward waiting indefinitely, nor did he want to hear Lark’s thoughts.
Lark was one of the users who understood Chiyou’s personality well and one who could engage in a ‘battle of wits’ with her.
What was he thinking?
Lark listened to Leeha and looked a little troubled.
“Well, I don’t have a perfect plan, but each of you here must have thought of something while hearing Ha Leeha’s ‘team division’ idea.”
“What were you thinking, Lark-ssi?”
Lark replied without hesitation to Fernand’s question.
It’s not about dividing into teams and appointing leaders immediately, like he’d thought.
It was a much more primitive and fundamental thought. He considered their perspective of Chiyou’s standpoint to attack them.
“Who does Chiyou think possesses it? Since she can’t attack twice or thrice, she’ll choose without fail. She’ll make the safest and most definitive choice.”
Who is the most likely to possess it?
It was only natural that the eyes of the Vatican office users focused in one direction.
Even the Pope sharing their gaze was somewhat surprising to the users.
“It would be… Ha Leeha.”
“That is correct, Your Holiness.”
Upon the Pope’s words, rarek nodded. Nonetheless, Leeha, the one identified, had a bewildered expression.
“Me? Oh? No, no! Chiyou is no fool! The first priority is Master Kay! It’s that Kijung guy, the second is Alexander, and the third is Fernand in order—.”
“Ha! I knew this would happen. Knowing oneself is hard, they say! Ha Leeha needs a more detailed assessment of himself.”
Leeha intended to briefly mention potential team compositions and leaders for the 〈Laputa〉 trip, but Lark interrupted him.
“What do you mean…”
“I can assure you, Chiyou… among all the users present here, she wouldn’t be intimidated by anyone. Whether it was an ambush or anything else, with her information network and financial power, she would find a way to trouble us. Even against Alexander, she might believe she could win.”
Alexander, along with Bailephus, looked displeased as they glared at Lark, but Lark did not even glance in their direction.
Lark’s face, which had relaxed at one side of his mouth, was steadily becoming more focused.
His fierce gaze was directed at only one person.
“However, not against Ha Leeha.”
Despite maintaining a jovial tone even within the papacy, there was a different intensity and resolve in his demeanor now.
“You hold me in such high regard? Even Chiyou?”
“Rather than high regard, how should I say…”
Lark scratched his head before replying.
“Ambiguity, uncertainty, indeterminacy, perhaps?”
“What?”
“Chiyou is the kind of user who has her information network spread across the entirety of Minis. What she fears most is something she doesn’t know. I’ve heard about the awakening of Pyrot-Cocri as well. Even if it meant giving the Demon King’s Fragments another tool, she wanted to know about it… And the user closest and most informed about it. To Chiyou, Ha Leeha is someone who is ‘unintelligible and unpredictable’. Therefore, she would seek to exploit you.”
Could it have been through Petyr that he heard?
Leeha was surprised to learn that Lark already knew about the dealings between Pyrot-Cocri and Chiyou, but there was no time to marvel over that.
His words resolved a mystery related to 〈Laputa〉.
Even if Chiyou acquired 〈Key of Jannate〉, how could she reach Laputa? Now, they must have learned about it from the very individual who dealt with Pyrot-Cocri.
‘Using 《Arcane Bullet》 might break through the barrier.’
There was a time when he dispelled Elizabeth’s weapon. If the deletion by Arcane Bullet applies even to inanimate objects…
The barrier of Laputa shouldn’t be immune either.
Lark’s assertion contained this idea, although very few users comprehended its full scope.
Listening to the sudden dialogue between Lark and Leeha, Kijung hesitantly spoke up.
“Well, then— what Lark means is… that Leeha-hyung shouldn’t have 〈Key of Jannate〉, right? Since there’s a high likelihood of Chiyou’s assault, it means it should be passed on to another team, doesn’t it?”
What was the conclusion embedded in Lark’s assertion?
Was he saying that because there was a higher probability of Chiyou attacking Leeha, it should never be given to him?
Hearing Kijung’s question, Lark pondered deeply.
“It’s like playing rock-paper-scissors and announcing ‘I’ll throw rock’.”
“Hmm? What?”
“It’s a matter that can’t be decided by mere prediction. Ah, have I said enough? Then, Your Holiness! By the way, how many item rights might you grant me? Ideally, it’d be nice to have five or six to equip a full set.”
“L-Lark!”
“If I acquire a lot, that’s also good for Nara, right? Isn’t it?”
Lark cheerfully approached the pope.
Despite Shin Nara’s embarrassment, attempting to dissuade him, the pope merely smiled awkwardly.
“Rock-paper-scissors… it implies a never-ending chain, I suppose.”
“Hmm, I also agree with Lark’s words. There’s nothing more dangerous than recklessly predicting an enemy’s decision.”
“First, the key thing seems to be distributing our forces. How many will participate, who will go, and into how many teams to divide them….”
Although they wanted to determine who would carry the key to Laputa, at this point, dividing users or forming teams was challenging.
Ultimately, the users gathered to receive 〈Key of Jannate〉 couldn’t decide on anything presently.
They could only focus on setting a deadline for participant discussions to delineate teams drawn from that.
After some discussion, they set a deadline of 15 days.
Fifteen days in Middle Earth’s timeframe, with a consensus to leave for Laputa within 72 hours in real-time.
“Alright then, let’s go receive our items! Your Holiness?”
“Of-of course. Haha… Such enthusiasm is invigorating indeed. Then, in the name of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉, I officially express my gratitude.”
While Lark was being playful, Shin Nara felt deeply embarrassed.
Anyway, Lark’s attitude was not wrong. Thanks to the fastest reward demands from the top contributors in the Tiamat battle, not only Leeha but also the players involved in the battle received an official notification.
Regarding the battle against Tiamat, the “Sacred Alliance” extended their announcement.
All participants who have defeated at least one Chimera in the war are scheduled to receive rewards differentiated by combat merit. Please visit either the Ezwen Papal Square on the Rope Continent or the Juma City “Sacred Alliance!”
General Headquarters on the Erika Continent for combat record verification prior to claiming your rewards.
『User: Ha Leeha, White Reaper』
He was the player with the top accumulated damage to Tiamat.
Granted authority to acquire two items within the Ezwen Papacy Treasure Vault.
Restriction: items of Legendary grade only.
He was ranked 683rd in accumulated Chimera kills.
Buff: “Ahlo’s Embracing Touch” applied for 20 days.
“Ranked 683rd? Well, I haven’t really hunted many Chimera.”
If it were Manticore or Chromatic Dragons, it would have been different, but Leeha had not directly killed many Chimeras.
Though mildly disappointed with the mediocre ranking, Leeha did not need to be greedy, knowing he wouldn’t reach the top ranks in the Chimera list anyway.
The significant part was being able to obtain two items from the papacy’s vault!
“Alright… What should I take?”
Leeha pondered as he exited the papacy. Was there an item he needed urgently right now?
“With Black Bass in such condition, I definitely don’t need weapons.”
An item that could drastically boost his MP would be considerably beneficial. Nevertheless, he also recognized that he didn’t have many spots left to equip gear.
“Well, since I have two days, first… I should ask what’s necessary.”
Therefore, Leeha’s choice wasn’t strange. Why be greedy if he didn’t need to be?
He decided to bring it to someone who truly needed the item. Someone he cherished, not just anyone.
“Hwayeon!”
Leeha couldn’t hide his smile the moment he saw Ram Hwayeon. It was the same for Ram Hwayeon too.
Her eyes were still in shock, but her mouth revealed her true feelings.
“Leeha, uh, what’s the matter?”
Regrettably, she couldn’t express herself more due to the setting.
Since there was no longer any need for her to oversee on-site activities, she was attending to miscellaneous duties in her fortress’s large office, where not only paleo but also many guild “Hwahong” users had newly transferred.
Leeha could feel the intimidating gaze of Hwahong users on him.
“Ahem, well, you see… I have something important to discuss…”
“Is that so? Then, let’s talk inside. Any important matter should be discussed privately.”
Reluctantly taking Leeha’s word, Ram Hwayeon pointed to her private office installed in one corner of the office.
Leeha and Ram Hwayeon awkwardly maintained their distance as they crossed the office.
They could occasionally hear the sound of turning pages and the conversations of superiors and subordinates giving orders, but Leeha and Ram Hwayeon understood.
Every living being in the room was concentrated on them.
Creaak…
As they entered Ram Hwayeon’s office and just as Leeha awkwardly cleared his throat to speak—
“Why did you take so long!”
Ram Hwayeon hugged Leeha.
“Uh, uh?”
Leeha was the most startled of anyone.
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“You haven’t contacted me! You barely whispered! What was that place last time where whispers didn’t work at all? And—why didn’t you reply to my text? I was worried!”
“Uh, well, uh… Did I? Huh? Where was I?”
Leeha, unable to recall details, knew Ram Hwayeon was referring to the time he endured Black Bass’s trial.
If it were a usual day, she would have rebuked Leeha with an irritated tone. He hadn’t forgotten about that as he entered her place this time.
Still, he thought maybe he could lighten Ram Hwayeon’s mood by promising her a gift, saying he got some items from the Vatican…
‘What is this? Why is she like this?’
This behavior was so different from her usual self!
Leeha handled Ram Hwayeon, who was hugging him around his neck, as delicately as handling glass.
It felt strange to embrace her, yet impossible to push her away; it was bewildering but oh so endearing…
When Leeha smiled, Ram Hwayeon released the hug, holding onto his arms and looking up at him.
Her eyes, as red and glimmering as her hair, shone with a brightness impossible in reality, adding even more to her charm.
As they maintained eye contact for a while, Ram Hwayeon’s expression suddenly froze.
“Was it strange? I thought you’d like it if I did this.”
“What, uh, what did you say?”
“Never mind! You didn’t even react. So, why are you here? What’s up?”
She leaned back into her chair. Leeha was taken aback by her drastic change in demeanor.
‘Could that have been…’
Aegyo?
Did someone advise her that Leeha would like such cute antics?
Still, imagining Ram Hwayeon seeking romantic advice from someone was beyond Leeha’s comprehension.
Leeha’s gaze instinctively turned to her office desk.
Among the numerous documents, a pile of papers with distinctly different handwriting stood out. As soon as his gaze landed on them, Ram Hwayeon dashed over quickly.
“What are you staring at!? Look, you really shouldn’t be poking around in things like this!”
The papers densely spread out appeared to be significant accounting documents with detailed entries and figures, but what Ram Hwayeon hid was not the company’s secret.
It was something more important: her own personal secret.
Leeha felt he could guess what she was concealing. She sought advice.
Not from a person, but from a book.
“Who did you take after to be this cute?”
“Huh, huh?”
“Our Ram Hwayeon, you have quite the cute side.”
Approaching her, Leeha was unable to fully close his open mouth.
“What’s all this talk? Good grief.”
Ram Hwayeon bashfully retreated as Leeha drew nearer but couldn’t move much in the cramped office.
Moreover, it seemed Ram Hwayeon had no real desire to keep avoiding Leeha.
As she looked at Leeha approaching, she naturally lifted her head.
The timing of their real-world meeting was far in the past. Middle Earth was the only place they could hear each other’s voices and feel each other’s warmth.
As Leeha approached, her eyes began to close slightly.
Leeha’s face came so close to hers that Ram Hwayeon could practically feel his breath.
“Hwayeon.”
“… Yes.”
Though she had experienced this before, her heart still fluttered.
Without adjusting her synchronization rate in advance, it was such a breathtaking moment that she’d get a game play restriction alert due to her racing pulse.
Leeha got close enough to brush against her face and said,
“Do you need anything?”
“… What?”
Ram Hwayeon’s eyes, once drowsy, suddenly began to clear.
Was he asking her to state what ‘should be done in this situation’?
“I mean, something you need. Haha, I’ve recently gained the authority to acquire two items from the Vatican?”
“Ah….”
Ram Hwayeon realized it then.
Leeha hadn’t read ‘the mood’ from the beginning.
“Well, I don’t need any weapons… For upper body, I have a bulletproof vest, and Jellypong is protecting me. A hat might be nice, but nothing urgent. So, if you need anything, I thought I’d get it for you. How about it?”
However, she didn’t feel angry or frustrated. Perhaps it was because she didn’t feel the urgency she once did.
Everything was differently assured compared to the past because she had firmly recognized Leeha as ‘her man’ and was confident about it herself now.
“Should I get you some Flame Mage items? If Pyro slacks even a bit, Hwayeon, you might become the heir of the Flame Mage hero. Oh, I heard this from the Sacred Grille—.”
Leeha chuckled innocently, even talking about trivial “Middle Earth” items in this atmosphere, making Ram Hwayeon feel a playful energy comparable to that of a younger lover when seeing an older partner.
“What a fool.”
“Huh? Fool? All of a sudden?”
When Ram Hwayeon giggled, Leeha was flustered.
“Anyway, sometimes I feel like calling you ‘oppa’, but at times like this, just ‘Ha Leeha’ seems fitting.”
“… Hmm? What does that mean? Ah! That’s right, now that I think of it, during the Tiamat battle, you called me oppa—”
Rumble!
Suddenly, a strong vibration resonated from Ram Hwayeon’s fortress.
The shaking was strong enough to drop dust from the stone crevices, which was certainly not a good sign.
“What’s happening?”
The smile quickly faded from Ram Hwayeon’s face. She dashed past Leeha, heading out of her office in a hurry.
“Director! Outside— it’s an attack!”
“An attack?”
Leeha quickly followed her outside.
This was the western part of the New Continent. Though relatively close to the central region, it was not a place prone to enemy attacks.
“Who attacked us? What is the type and scale of the enemy? Can the Paleos’ emergency defense system hold them off?”
Ram Hwayeon asked rapidly, and even before the guild members of Hwahong could reply, Leeha was already running outside the office.
“I’ll go out and check!”
“Wait a second! Ha Leeha!”
The forces making it this far had to be formidable.
“It might be a chimera, or perhaps a Demon King’s Fragment!”
Leeha quickly loaded Black Bass with a magazine. With a powerful metallic click, a light shone from the bolt of Black Bass.
― Hehehe… Another opportunity arises. ―
“Black! What is it? What opportunity?”
Bang—!
As Leeha burst through the door and faced the enemy attack, the voices reporting to Ram Hwayeon and the voice from Black Bass echoed together in his ears.
“It’s dragons! Four dragons, estimated to be at least adult-level!”
― It’s a chance to drink the blood of revenge-driven dragons. ―
“Oh…?”
Swooping down from the sky, black creatures spouted green breath, while blue and red ones spewed fire and lightning, scorching the air, all coming into Leeha’s view.
There could only be one reason for the sudden assault by chromatic dragons in the western part of the New Continent.
〈Accomplishment: Remove the focal point that led Chromatic Dragons (S+)〉
Reward: Increased likelihood of being attacked by chromatic dragons
(This is a single occurrence event that can happen regardless of the location, with the colors of the dragons being selected randomly.)
“Oh… Is this my event?”
One of the situations Leeha had dreaded happened to erupt at Ram Hwayeon’s fortress.
― Hehe, isn’t this the perfect opponent for me to get back into action since I fully awakened? ―
“Uh, yeah. But let’s get things straight. You talk about exercising, but you don’t have a body.”
Though his words sounded carefree, Leeha’s body acted with mechanical precision.
After pulling the bolt to load a bullet, he promptly aimed his gun at the sky. The enemies included two black dragons, and one each of blue and red dragons.
Trying out Black Bass, which had become of 『Myth』 grade for the first time, he targeted the blue dragon soaring across the sky.
His breath… calm.
According to the Hwahong report, those dragons could only be around the adult level. Unless they’re at the ancient-class, it would be challenging to dodge Leeha’s bullets.
Besides, given the relatively young dragon’s combat style of indiscriminately breathing to locate Leeha, he found it quite manageable to confront them.
‘But… should I just fight like this?’
There was just one reason Leeha hesitated to pull the trigger.
The grudge between him and the chromatic dragons was irreparably deep. Leeha was more aware of this fact than anyone.
But now?
― Why hesitate? ―
“Well, you know.”
― What do you know. ―
“There’s a red dragon.”
There was a red dragon. In the achievement titled “Kuzgunak’sh’s Last Wish!”
Leeha had indeed seen it.
〈Achievement: Kuzgunak’sh’s Last Wish (S+)〉
Reward: Obtained the authority to request an interruption during the battle with the red dragon.
How would a battle in such an event format play out?
If Leeha requested mediation from the red dragon, would the Blue and Black Dragons leave without fighting Leeha as well?
“Fighting is easy. But─there’s a need to test it out.”
For the future’s sake, a trial run was necessary. That’s why Leeha found it difficult to pull the trigger.
“Ha Leeha! What are you doing? It’s dangerous, so hurry─.”
“No, I can’t hide.”
Ram Hwayeon had emerged outside the building and tried to pull Leeha back inside, but instead, he revealed himself.
“─What, what? Where are you going!”
“They are looking for me. If they find me, they won’t attack elsewhere.”
Haahaaa…
Leeha took a deep breath once more.
The dragons that had been breathing fire and casting spells from the sky simultaneously turned their heads towards him.
Even as the four gigantic dragons swooped down as if to snatch him up, Leeha did not tremble.
Handling four adult-class dragons with the help of those around him was something he was confident about.
‘Or perhaps, even without any assistance─’
Leeha had the confidence that he could handle them even without the act of sniping.
If only the mana energy wasn’t gathering near their jaws, he would have tried conversing with them.
“Hey, you guys! Starting with the breath out of nowhere─Jellypong, go airborne!”
『Meowieow!』
Swish─! Jellypong pushed off the ground, launched, and propelled Leeha into the air.
In an instant, he landed on the rooftop of another building. The dragons flying towards him stopped advancing any further upon seeing this.
“Hey, red─red dragon! Hey, you! I have a message from your biggest elder, kuzgunag’sh! Aren’t you going to stop right now?”
Leeha shouted loudly, but the dragons did not cease their breaths.
Seeing their behavior as if they hadn’t heard him, Leeha frowned.
‘Fire breath, I can withstand it anyway. But acidic breath is troublesome. So is electric─’
Leeha, with fire resistance exceeding 100%, found the red dragon’s breath no threat, but the others were a different story.
Considering the acidic breath that had completely melted Lark’s equipment, the Black Dragons were currently the most dangerous.
‘In the end……. Do I have to kill them?’
Is it impossible to improve relations with the chromatic dragons through the accomplishments of Kuzgunak’sh?
‘If I could improve relations for the future─or at least stop their attacks, there’s still something I could do.’
Leeha smacked his lips in regret. Killing them was not difficult.
The challenge lay in letting them live, wasn’t it?
However, to minimize damage to the fortress, he couldn’t take all the attacks indefinitely.
“Damn it, blacks! Let’s devour them.”
—Heh, it should have come to this sooner.—
“I regret it, but I can’t wait for them to breathe.”
For Leeha, who had steeled his resolve, no hesitation remained. If killing them was the best course for the ‘present’, he would choose it.
“Sorry, chromatic─.”
─────────────…….
“─Huh!?”
Just as Leeha was about to pull the trigger, a sudden burst of lavender light erupted beside him.
In the fleeting moment when Leeha frowned, four chromatic dragons simultaneously unleashed their breaths.
“Ha Leehaaaa!”
As Ram Hwayeon called out to him and the guild members of Hwahong hastily cast their shields, Leeha saw someone amidst the fading remnants of light.
Someone who was about his own height.
With their back facing him, Leeha couldn’t discern their face, and due to their long hair reaching their waist and fluttering robe, it was hard to immediately identify their gender.
However, there was one thing that caught Leeha’s eye.
“…… Could it be…….”
Long teal hair, which could never be found on other users.
Despite his height being similar to Leeha’s, the slouched robe indicated the delicacy of the figure, highlighted by the small back of the head and the long teal hair.
Leeha knew this person. He had seen this non-human before.
“…… Blaugrunn?”
Standing unwaveringly against the breaths of the four adult-class chromatic dragons, he did not step away from Leeha.
“Ha Leeha, are you alright? I’ll block it for now.”
The 『Adult-Class Bronze Dragon』 Blaugrunn calmly began casting a spell.
TL’s Corner:
애교” (aegyo) is a Korean term referring to a cute, playful behavior often used to charm or endear oneself to others. This behavior includes a mix of cute gestures, facial expressions, and a sweet or slightly babyish tone of voice. It’s commonly associated with acting adorable or affectionate in a lighthearted way, often seen in K-pop and Korean dramas.
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“Thunder Bird, Ice Fog: Enhancement, neutralization: Alkaline, absolute Barrier.”
The turquoise mana swirling around Blaugrunn’s body erupted wildly. Leeha found it difficult to discern exactly what skills Blaugrunn had employed due to the rapid casting.
The bird-shaped electric charge lured the Blue Dragon’s breath.
The movement of electricity using the potential difference was challenging even for first-class electricians to materialize, yet the Bronze Dragon, sharing the same electric attribute, accomplished it with ease.
The same was true for the two Black Dragons’ breaths.
Compared to Bahamut transforming the Onyx’s breath into a gas with the scent of acacia, it was of a lower level, but Blaugrunn was an academic dragon.
While flying, it neutralized the formidable breath of the Black Dragon, which could corrode the fortress walls, through an alkaline substance.
“The Black Dragon’s breath—”
“It disappeared. No, rather than disappeared, the color…?”
It was an event that left the guild members of Hwahong, masters of analysis, with their eyes wide open in surprise.
The red dragon’s breath lost some speed while piercing through the frozen moisture in the air, and by the time it reached the shield created by Blaugrunn, it had already lost significant piercing power and heat.
Woosh!
Observing the flames that vanished upon hitting the barrier, Leeha also stood with a dazed expression.
It was a similar reaction to Hwahong’s surprise, but Leeha was more impressed by a finer aspect.
‘It’s adult-class over there. Not just magic, but how it’s handling the breath…’
Blaugrunn’s specialty was nullifying other magic with his own, which was understandable. However, this was the breath, one of the ultimate techniques of dragons!
Neutralizing the breath of four adult-class dragons with just a few spells?
‘Isn’t this challenging even for ancient-grade dragons? It’s not feasible with just a typical ancient-grade dragon. It would take a dragon with strength like Bailephus.’
“Ha Leeha, I suggest we move now rather than later.”
“What? Oh, yes.”
Blaugrunn turned to look at Leeha.
Leeha, standing awkwardly, felt assured. It was all the more amazing.
Blaugrunn’s expression, his awkward yet embarrassed smile.
“Blaugrunn! How did you manage to exhibit the power of an ancient-grade—”
“It wouldn’t have been possible without Ha Leeha’s Dragon Slayer buff. It seems you’ve been cursed by Tiamat as well… Will you be able to fight?”
“Uh, ah?”
Not only his expressions and demeanor, but also the unique thought process and tone of an AI belonged to Blaugrunn.
Speaking with an awkward humility, he communicated to Leeha not to be under any illusion.
When adult-class chromatic dragons engage in combat near Leeha, their stats decrease by 40%.
Although Leeha experienced a significant penalty of -60%, making it difficult for either to distinctly notice, Blaugrunn had no debuff effects, allowing him to display remarkable abilities!
“Haha! Indeed, Blaugrunn-ssi! I didn’t realize it at first, but after going through so much till now? Now I understand why you were such an arrogant little brat even after growing up!”
“Is that so? Haha, I’ll take it as a compliment. Then for the battle—”
“Just restrain! No killing! Jellypong!”
As the bewildered chromatic dragons attempted to use follow-up magic, Leeha soared into the sky using Jellypong.
What is the best method to avoid fighting dragons?
If dragons whose breaths were blocked were gathered in clusters, this would indeed be the optimal attack.
“Mana Vaporizing Shot!”
Ka-boom────────!
The mana evaporation bomb detonated on the ground between the dragons standing at intervals, instantly showing its effectiveness.
As the chromatic dragons, whose skills were cancelled mid-casting, panicked, Leeha glanced back at Ram Hwayeon and Hwahong.
“Ram Hwayeon! And everyone, close your eyes!”
“What? Suddenly―”
“Oh no, the director is about to do something again!”
The members of Hwahong’s guild were momentarily confused. However, when they saw that Director Ram Hwayeon had closed her eyes without a moment’s hesitation, they also promptly followed suit.
Once Leeha confirmed this, he felt reassured and could use his skill.
『Queen’s Vengeance!』
『Ha Leeha―!』
『By the command of my clan, I shall execute you!』
The dragons, unable to use mana, charged in for hand-to-hand combat.
The best method to subdue them!
Leeha quietly activated his skill towards the dragons who could no longer be protected by dark spirits due to the absence of Tiamat.
“〈Familiar Fear: Reveal〉.”
* * *
As soon as Leeha summoned the supreme fear spirit, Uncanny, he also closed his eyes. Anticipating Leeha’s skill, Blaugrunn did the same.
The chromatic dragons locked eyes with Uncanny.
And at that moment, their rush came to a complete halt.
Each of the four chromatic dragons encountered a warm, familiar figure in Uncanny. Yet, this lasted only a matter of seconds.
Once Uncanny transformed into their most terrifying figure, the inevitable despairing cries reached Leeha as well.
『No, you― how could it be!』
『Why― why is the elder here…….』
『Oh, Onyx Great Elder!』
『Grandfather― urgh!』
Leeha could easily guess that all four adult chromatic dragons saw the same entity.
Facing not the leader of the rival Metal Dragons, but the elder of their own kind, the Chromatic Dragons.
‘Indeed… It makes sense to rise to such an achievement as granting freedom to dragons.’
Even after death, could Onyx remain a symbol of fear?
Even a third party like Leeha could speculate Onyx’s harsh and ruthless reign of terror.
Boom…
Leeha opened his eyes after hearing a powerful crash.
Even adult dragons couldn’t withstand fainting from fear.
“Phew… There are many things I’d like to ask, but business first, right? Should I refer to you as Blaugrunn―?”
Leeha asked as he lightly kicked the tail of the sprawled chromatic dragons.
Blaugrunn, despite being in human form, softly sliced through the air and stood beside Leeha.
“If you call me that, it’ll be too awkward. Call me like before.”
“Well, even if you say to call you like before… It’s awkward for me. Your tone is strangely scholarly too.”
Seeing Blaugrunn’s gentle smile, Leeha somehow found it difficult to meet his eyes.
Certainly, Blaugrunn had shed his childish image, now presenting the demeanor of an adult. It was an unfamiliar sight for Leeha.
Moreover, Leeha hadn’t had many conversations with Blaugrunn in the past.
Not long after meeting, they had fought Kuzgunak’sh, and wasn’t it there that Blaugrunn had been killed?
After Leeha used the “Easter Egg” to resurrect him, the time spent together during his adult phase was fleeting compared to the years from his hatchling stage until now.
“What a mysterious situation. Leeha, who stood proudly before any ancient dragon of our kin, is deferential to me….”
“That’s because… well, we’re not just anyone to each other, right? My words aren’t quite right. Ahem, let’s postpone this conversation for now! Please subdue them first. Can you do it?”
“Are you asking if I can?”
Leeha found it difficult to continue the conversation any further and changed the topic. Blaugrunn did not erase his smile while looking at Leeha.
Four chromatic dragons were scattered irregularly, but Blaugrunn gathered them all. Without even using a skill, he only used mana to move their massive bodies, completing the task of bringing them together. Only then did teal particles begin to surge around his body.
“Even if Onyx returned alive, it wouldn’t be able to break this barrier. ‘Electric Jail’.”
A skill he had once intended for use against Kaztor. Unlike the strength of his juvenile days, the electric prison, possessing a different level of power, bound the bodies of the chromatic dragons.
Seeing this scene, paleo and Hwahong rekindled their respect for Leeha.
It was almost impossible for just two humans to subdue four adult-level dragons so quickly, let alone capture them alive, across all of Middle Earth.
Without noticing the gazes directed at him, Leeha searched for a way to awaken the dragons.
“Let’s see, how shall I wake these guys… Ah! ‘Perfect Storm’.”
Using the coat of Drake, the prince of mermaids, a tiny scale rain cloud dripped rain over the heads of the chromatic dragons.
『Ooh, ugh…』
『This is―.』
“Have you all opened your eyes?”
Leeha smirked and squatted near them. The chromatic dragons stood up as if they were about to tear Leeha apart.
『Ha Leeha!』
『Do you dare to insult us!』
『W-wait! Everyone―.』
Pachachachak!
『Aaaagh―!』
The blue dragon tried to stop them, but the impatient black dragons had already thrown themselves against the electrified walls surrounding them.
“Ugh, the smell of burning dragon scales isn’t pleasant. I thought it would smell like grilled meat.”
Leeha fanned himself with his hand, looking at the two sprawled black dragons. The red dragon, failing to grasp the situation, remained totally alert, while the blue dragon showed more interest in the surrounding magic than in Leeha.
『Electric Jail? Who could create such a powerful Electric Jail in such a space?』
The blue dragon glanced momentarily toward Leeha before looking away.
The chromatic dragons already understood well that Leeha could not have created such magic. The blue dragon glared at Blaugrunn as if it intended to devour him with its eyes.
“Didn’t we meet before by Queen Tiamat’s side, blue Dragon? I am Blaugrunn of the Bronze clan.”
Blaugrunn introduced himself, bowing his head toward the blue dragon with his usual gentle smile.
『Bronze Dragon Blaugrunn. Yes, I remember. You! Back then, you were definitely a juvenile―.』
“Something significant happened to us metal dragons… unintentionally, it turned out like this.”
『No, no, it couldn’t be! Such magic, even for an adult-level like you! This degree of Electric Jail requires mana that only a great elder among our clan might wield!』
The blue dragon jumped up and down in disbelief. However, the initial fury in its gaze had long vanished.
Its trembling pupils reflected an evident mixture of confusion, unease, and fear—something even Leeha could recognize.
Blaugrunn looked straight into those eyes.
“Probably so.”
He nodded quietly.
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『Ah, I guess that’s true―』.
The Blue Dragon stammered.
Leeha found himself in the same position with a lack of grasp on the situation, but the dragon’s foolish appearance made him want to laugh.
The Black Dragon, witnessing Leeha’s smile, frowned at the Blue Dragon.
『Is it really that surprising, Hadakr?』
『S-Sir Syeoru.』
『There’s always a difference in skill among adults. How can you, as a part of the Chromatic, display such disgraceful behavior?』
『That’s… that’s…』
Even Leeha could tell that they were of the same adult class.
Yet, the Black Dragon spoke to the Blue Dragon as if scolding it. Did it imply a hierarchy? Or simply a difference in strength?
The Black Dragon exuded a confidence that exceeded such reasoning.
It was as if it claimed to have captured Leeha and Blaugrunn with that serene expression. Leeha saw through that calm demeanor.
“Onyx?”
『You, insolent human! How dare you utter the venerable elder’s name carelessly!』
『If only grandfather were here, you wouldn’t even be a mouthful―.』
“Yeah, banking on Onyx’s backing, huh? But didn’t you guys faint at the sight of ‘Onyx’ earlier?”
So Onyx’s influence lingered even after death.
Once the name Onyx was mentioned, the aura of the two Black Dragons surged noticeably, while Blue and Red seemed more intimidated.
With Leeha’s words leaving no room for objection, the Black Dragons growled.
At that moment, sparks flared from their bodies.
『Kyaa!』
『Krhhh?』
“I’m sorry, but we can’t let you use magic. Ha Leeha, be cautious too. Dragons restore mana much faster than humans.”
“Oh, that’s right. No wonder mana particles just gathered in their bodies.”
As soon as Blaugrunn saw what Leeha had barely noticed with his 〈Distorted Eyes〉 ability, he intervened to prevent it. Leeha glanced at Blaugrunn and suddenly displayed a strange smile.
‘This is too much! What is this?! Why has he gotten so strong? Was he like this before?’
Even recalling the past adult-class Blaugrunn, there weren’t any significant memories Leeha could remember.
It was partly because of the overwhelming strength of Kuzgunak’sh and also because Leeha’s own insight was too limited to comprehend or recognize their battles.
However, even in comparing fragmentary memories, there was something certain.
Blaugrunn was strong.
If so?
『If you do not release us at once―.』
“Oh, noisy. Aren’t you assessing the situation correctly? You Chromatic Dragons are captured by me. You aren’t leaving just like that! Understood?”
Simultaneously, Leeha thought he should utilize the situation.
Faced with Leeha’s gallant attitude, the Chromatic Dragons attempted to rekindle their fighting spirit, but Leeha wouldn’t sit idle and watch.
Click.
The metallic sound didn’t ring loudly.
Compared to the dragons’ growling, it was extremely faint, but neither was the action of Leeha aiming the gun light.
“What? Wanna try me? How many seconds do you think it would take to kill dragons that couldn’t even break my partner’s barrier?”
『Kill! There are plenty of dragons to carry on Elder Onyx’s legacy. There are many dragons left to avenge the Queen. Do you think we’ll yield to a human’s threat?』
The Black Dragon, known as Syeoru, growled in response to Leeha’s words. Leeha responded with a smirk.
“Stop spouting nonsense about avenging the Queen. The name Onyx came up first just now, didn’t it? If it were truly to avenge Tiamat, that name should’ve been mentioned first, right?”
The ridicule was more than enough to infuriate the Black Dragon further.
『How Dare You!』
Before the dragons could say anything, Leeha quickly spoke.
“No, aren’t you Chromatic Dragons already aware? About Onyx trying to absorb Tiamat.”
That single sentence was enough to shut the mouths of the Black Dragon.
However, Leeha was not only focusing on them. Watching the reaction of the Blue and Red Dragons to the mention of Onyx’s name and the absorption of Tiamat, Leeha could gauge the situation to some extent.
It was certain that Onyx’s name held influence within the Chromatic Dragons.
And what could be the reason that Onyx’s name carried influence at this point?
‘So that’s it.’
Leeha’s gun shifted between the Chromatic Dragons.
Every small movement made by the tiny human crouched in front of Electric Jail caused the enormous dragons to flinch.
“Killing you wouldn’t be difficult. Here, I don’t even need Blaugrunn’s help. Even if the four of us clashed again after eliminating Electric Jail… if I truly intended to kill you, it wouldn’t even take 5 seconds.”
『Such arrogant nonsense—.』
BANG────────!
The gunshot rang loudly, interrupting Seoryu’s words.
The bullet bounced right in front of his claw, lightly brushing his chin scales.
“Say one more word and I’ll really kill you.”
Though Leeha’s voice was very low and soft, it was loud enough for the dragons to hear. At last, all the dragons shut their mouths.
In the tense atmosphere, Leeha glared at the Black Dragon for a moment and then turned his head.
“To continue where we left off, while killing you is extremely easy, I don’t want to fight you anymore. That’s how I truly feel.”
『Then… what do you intend to do?』
The Blue Dragon asked cautiously.
Leeha wasn’t looking at him. Since turning his gaze from the Black Dragon, Leeha had been focused on only one thing, the red dragon.
“Name?”
『Arev.』
“Good. Arev, do you know that I am the one who granted Kuzgunak’sh’s final wish?”
『…….』
The red dragon Arev did not respond.
Leeha knew that silence meant affirmation.
The Black Dragon was giving looks telling him not to speak nonsense, but when Leeha glared at him momentarily, he couldn’t move at all.
Leeha took a breath, organizing his words before speaking.
“I want to talk with you. I don’t seek a battle with you. If you agree to talk, I will let all of you leave alive.”
Could this truly be considered using the rewards of achievements?
After subduing with force, was he instilling a coercive ‘peace’?
This was a slightly different perspective from a ceasefire request led by the red dragon.
Unlike Arev persuading Seoryu, who seemed to hold the most power among them, to retreat, it was simply Leeha unilaterally proposing this.
However, for Leeha, it didn’t matter which direction it went anymore.
The Black Dragon did not intervene, and Leeha simply wanted to ask questions to the dragon most likely to communicate.
“Decide. If you refuse, all four of you will die here, without meaning, without succeeding in any vengeance.”
Surviving would give a chance for revenge.
To persuade them, Leeha pretended to be offering himself as a sacrifice.
Once this event-like raid ended, perhaps an ancient-level being would come next time.
Would he be able to hold them off as he did now? It would probably be difficult. Yet Leeha spoke with confidence.
‘Anyway, I’m heading to the New Continent’s East, so what’s going to happen.’
Because he had something to rely on.
The chromatic dragons exchanged glances momentarily. In the end, Arev nodded.
“Alright. I understand the will of our clan’s elder, Kuzgunak’sh.”
“Okay. Agreement established. Oh, of course, we’ll let you go for now. But if you attack me now or later, there will be no mercy. Right, Blaugrunn?”
Leeha smiled as he looked at Blaugrunn.
“Yes. Let’s release them all.”
As the wall of electricity disappeared, they started to fly away, momentarily bewildered.
They briefly showed expressions of disbelief that Leeha would really let them go, but refrained from any reckless attacks.
“Remember, Ha Leeha. Our chromatic dragons are just waiting for the day to burn your bones to ashes.”
“Yes, yes, take care.”
“And Arev. If you speak nonsense, not only you but all the red dragon clan will not be spared.”
“…… I understand. Seoryu.”
“Hmph.”
Led by Seoryu, the Black Dragons and Blue Dragons followed suit.
After watching the chromatic dragons become small dots in the sky, Leeha turned to Arev.
“Now! Let’s go inside and have a chat. Oh, wouldn’t it be better if you appear human? Ram Hwayeon! Is there perhaps a quiet place where we can talk?”
Then he warmly called out to Ram Hwayeon.
Capturing the chromatic dragons wasn’t enough; he even negotiated with them?
Those from the previous shocked Paleos and Hwawong Guild members were now in disbelief.
* * *
“This tea is good. Hwayeon, where did you get this?”
Leeha casually picked up the teacup and took a sip.
At the square table, Leeha was seated with Blaugrunn, Ram Hwayeon, and Arev alongside him.
The meeting room, a small office within Hwawong’s headquarters, was filled with tension.
―Is this the time to say such things? What are you going to do about that red dragon? And how did Blaugrunn get involved like this?
―I don’t know about Blaugrunn. And don’t worry about the red dragon, I’ve got plans for that.
Leeha deemed it necessary to talk with Blaugrunn but was not going to miss the opportunity presented by the visit of the red dragon.
“So… what conversation are you hoping to have?”
Arev, with his red, sporty hair, was a young man.
With lighter, more slender skin than Kuzgunak’sh, Leeha noted the differences in characteristics were not exclusive to dragons; they varied by individual.
After quenching his thirst, Leeha placed the teacup down.
A red dragon that could be reasoned with enough to halt a battle and retreat? It might be possible to glean some information he was curious about.
“There are a few things I’d like to ask. The first is about the elder.”
“Elder?”
“Is the reason the Onyx faction… I mean, the Black Dragons, are so aggressive because another Black Dragon is likely to be elected as the next elder?”
“… There’s no reason to divulge internal matters of the chromatic dragons to outsiders. Even if you fulfilled Elder Kuzgunak’sh’s wish—it’s not something I can share.”
Arev immediately rejected Leeha’s request. Leeha nodded in understanding.
Judging by their attitude until now, it was enough to infer certain truths. There was no need to explicitly confirm them.
“Alright. It’s not of immediate relevance to me who is currently favored. Ah! Then could you perhaps tell me about the timeline? When such meetings are held… if there’s a fixed date or time?”
“The Metal Dragons your side associates with should know well.”
“Hmm? Blaugrunn?”
Arev folded his arms and looked at Blaugrunn.
Receiving Leeha’s gaze, Blaugrunn nodded. His turquoise hair shimmered.
“Indeed, Ha Leeha. Although it differs slightly from Queen Tiamat… each dragon is obliged to elect a leader. However, there is no set deadline.”
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“―That is the old Blaugrunn, right?”
Ram Hwayeon whispered to Leeha, her expression unchanged as she casually held a teacup.
Leeha, barely maintaining his composure, asked Blaugrunn, “Why?”
“Because he is someone who will lead the coming thousands of years.”
“Ah…”
As Leeha opened his mouth and nodded deeply, alev was momentarily bewildered.
“He seemed like a smart human. Unexpected.”
“Well, you know! Our perception of time differs from yours. Anyway, whether or not there’s a deadline, you must feel the need to elect someone quickly.”
“If it’s similar to Metal, then yes. When there is unanimous agreement after ample deliberation. It would be best if there were a dragon with magic, physical prowess, wisdom, and virtues, but if such a situation is unlikely…”
Arev looked towards Blaugrunn.
Blaugrunn nodded, acknowledging what Arev intended to convey.
“The strongest one shall be chosen. It’s the same for Metal.”
“Indeed.”
The logic of strength.
Leeha could discern how the deceased Bahamut and Onyx were each selected.
Listening to their conversation, Leeha could form a rough direction.
“Alright then… Arev?”
“Why are you calling me?”
“Would you be able to list the hierarchy of the red dragon family at this point?”
“… I don’t understand the reason. I wouldn’t answer such a question, nor why you’re asking it.”
Arev tilted his head, looking at Blaugrunn.
Though it seemed like a request for the metal dragon to explain, Blaugrunn also shook his head.
“Um, I recalled something I heard before. The red dragon and Black Dragon have long been rivals… Right?”
It was something Leeha heard when he was once dragged to a meeting place of the Chromatic Dragons.
The words were from a deceased Lavartle. Regarding Leeha’s achievements, when dragons gained freedom and when witnessing Kuzgunak’Sh’s wish achievements, it became a substantial thread woven into Leeha’s tapestry.
“Then? What does that have to do with humans—”
“I’m trying to make one of the Red Dragons the elder.”
What if one of the red dragon clan, who could request a halt to combat, became the elder of the Chromatic Dragons?
Arev’s firm crossed arms began to drop.
Even Blaugrunn’s eyes widened as he watched Leeha, a testament to how unexpected his plan was to everyone present, and even to all external entities.
* * *
“Is that—Do you intend to disgrace not just me, but our entire Chromatic Dragon clan? A human meddling with the election of an elder—not just meddling but implying that you would hold the decisive power?”
Arev was momentarily flustered, but more than flustered, he expressed anger.
Even though he was almost sequestered, the aura of the dragon was not diminishing.
Watching the red dragon, Leeha gave a sly smile.
“Surely not. I also know well that the Chromatic Dragons see me as a bad guy. Actually, well, I did kill Tiamat among others, including the Elder, Onyx… But think about it. It was an inevitable choice for me too, wasn’t it?”
Leeha shrugged his shoulders.
Arev quivered, letting out a deep breath, but didn’t charge at Leeha.
‘The temper of the red dragon hasn’t changed. It’s still alive. And the very fact that he’s showing such a reaction…’
At least, the fact that Arev was ‘holding back’ meant that he understood as well.
Tiamat had been resurrected incorrectly.
There was a high possibility of her falling prey to the whim of the Demon King’s Fragment.
That was something undesired even by the Chromatic Dragons, so bypassing her would, in fact, be beneficial for them too.
And Onyx?
He was the dragon who tried to seize power by killing Tiamat.
If his plan had succeeded, the Elder of the Chromatic Dragons would never have changed, and Tiamat might never have been resurrected again.
“I became a participant in the fight and made a bit more of an impact, so you all know me well. Don’t you think so?”
In essence, it was as if Leeha had prevented the Chromatic Dragons from falling into a bad path, potentially saving them from falling into a pit they could never climb out of.
This was precisely what Leeha intended to assert, and Arev’s reluctance to attack despite trembling indicated that he, a red dragon, understood this far.
“Kuz-
“The fact that I fought with ‘Kuzgunak’sh’ was, well, also inevitable. Regardless of how the Chromatic Dragons may perceive it, Blaugrunn-ssi here died because of Kuzgunak’sh. Who should take revenge if not me? He was my partner dragon.”
Before Arev could mention his name, Leeha spoke first.
In reality, Blaugrunn became Leeha’s partner dragon after Kuzgunak’sh had died. However, Leeha did not explain such detailed matters to Arev, who knew none of the prior circumstances.
Leeha’s focus was on securing Arev’s agreement before he could logically protest.
“Hmm…”
Arev looked at Blaugrunn.
Blaugrunn nodded calmly, lending weight to Leeha’s words.
“And speaking of which, the side of the Chromatic Dragons didn’t support Kuzgunak’sh from the start, did they? Onyx didn’t want Tiamat’s resurrection either. At the time, he was clearly in a position where he hoped for help, but it was the red dragon clan that ignored him. Feel free to contradict me if I’m wrong.”
Despite being under the oppressive directive of Elder Onyx, Kuzgunak’sh had not received any support from any Chromatic Dragons.
Not even from fellow Red Dragons.
This was known to Leeha because of the information he had received from Bailephus and Bahamut at that time, and naturally, Arev could not refute Leeha’s words.
It would be akin to acknowledging their clan’s despicable self-concealment, yielding to Onyx.
Arev was much calmer now.
“I am not an enemy of the Chromatic Dragons. If you must make a distinction, I was merely the enemy of Onyx. Even though I fought with Kuzgunak’sh… Among the Chromatic Dragons, the one with the most spirit and leadership was Kuzgunak’sh, in my opinion. I mean, I prefer the resolute and bold demeanor of the Red Dragons over the deceitful Black Dragons.”
Leeha took a sip of tea.
One should not push too hard. When an enemy is close to acknowledging everything, that’s when the final blow—’persuasion’—comes into play.
Though Leeha was usually not poor with words, he had another reason for being so articulate even before dragons.
―The rice should be ready now.
―Is it the time to give the carrot after the stick?
―Yes. ‘Oppa’ is good at that, right?
This was all thanks to Ram Hwayeon’s timely advice!
Of course, just having good timing doesn’t make one articulate. When the materials and conditions for persuasion are all set, timing merely adds more force to it.
Knowing this, Ram Hwayeon called him oppa when she saw Leeha skillfully managing all the elements and conditions.
And she also knew: This was much like a game.
When focused like this, Leeha became so immersed in his target that he forgot even being called oppa. She knew well that the name she secretly used wouldn’t reach his ears.
“If you have an intention for one of the Red Dragons to be the elder, please tell me about the current hierarchy and situation.”
Leeha set his teacup down as he spoke. The clear sound of the teacup meeting the saucer resonated along with the gleam in his eyes.
Arev stared at Leeha for a significant time. Yet, neither Leeha nor Ram Hwayeon nor Blaugrunn showed any signs of impatience.
“Flamme.”
“Pardon?”
It was precisely this kind of silent period that indicated the matter was proceeding correctly.
“He is currently the strongest and most venerable elder among the Red Dragons. Regardless of what I know, all members of the Red tribe follow his will.”
A gentle smile crept up to Leeha’s lips.
“Alright. Could you arrange for a meeting with Sir Flamme?”
He then stood up and extended his hand toward Arev. Arev quietly extended his hand toward Leeha, sealing an accord through their firm and brief handshake, signifying the fulfillment of Kuzgunak’sh’s final wish.
* * *
Leeha managed to catch his breath approximately 30 minutes after Arev departed. He had to attend to a few guild members from Hwahong who approached Ram Hwayeon, asking if they could take screenshots together, revealing the nuances that accompanied such requests.
“Almost treated like a star?”
“It’s because you didn’t stop them, Hwayeon. Even though they seemed cautious, they all came over, wanting to take pictures, goodness… It’s not as if I’m an entertainer.”
Though Leeha grumbled, his lips had already stretched into a broad smile. Ram Hwayeon couldn’t help but chuckle at his demeanor.
Why didn’t she stop them? It was simple. Of course, in the case of Hwahong’s guild members, maintaining confidentiality was a given. Plus, who would oppose her boyfriend becoming a well-known figure?
Now gathered in Ram Hwayeon’s office, Leeha finally turned his attention to what genuinely piqued his interest.
“Blaugrunn.”
“Yes, Ha Leeha.”
“That… that form, so what happened?”
When did Blaugrunn reach adult status?
The last time Leeha met him was post-Bahamut’s demise, when the Metal Dragons gathered in his lair.
Alexander and Bailephus were still unconscious, and Kurpke was conveying Bahamut’s last wishes to Leeha. From that point, Leeha had not encountered Blaugrunn.
Though some time seemed to have passed, it hadn’t even been a full month yet.
Blaugrunn briefly gazed at Leeha before beginning his Tale.
“Do you recall I mentioned being unwell?”
“Of course. You said you weren’t feeling well, although I don’t recall you specifically mentioning pain.”
“Yes, I’m a little embarrassed to say, but it seems it was a kind of growing pain.”
“Growing pain?”
Both Leeha and Ram Hwayeon tilted their heads, intrigued.
Blaugrunn smiled bashfully.
“I grew too quickly. While this was thanks to you, Ha Leeha-ssi, I experienced firsthand what I couldn’t in my past life, only reading or learning about indirectly through records and legends. Perhaps that actually hindered my growth.”
“Hindered your growth?”
“I became conceited. Do you recall the time I just reached juvenile status?”
“Ah, was it after we returned from the New Continent?”
“Even then, I already had a heart capacity similar to that of an average adult dragon.”
Blaugrunn laughed sheepishly.
His words might have sounded self-praising, but neither Leeha nor Ram Hwayeon sensed arrogance in them.
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“It was truly a blessing.”
For Leeha, who had been through countless battles, it was thanks to Blaugrunn’s presence that he could unleash his abilities beyond 100%.
Especially alongside Blaugrunn.
Upon hearing Leeha’s words, Blaugrunn nodded again.
“Thank you for saying so, Ha Leeha. Lord Bahamut discerned that my weakness lay in the physical realm and assigned me to Lady Zelreja for rigorous training. Haha, to be honest, looking back now, I really wanted to run away.”
“Hehe, was there ever a time Blaugrunn had such thoughts?”
“Anyway, I was still young back then. Even though I grew physically—and had enough mana capacity and the knowledge to apply it—I wasn’t truly an adult. Although I was far beyond juvenile, nonetheless.”
During the battle with Tiamat, Blaugrunn’s height was at Leeha’s shoulder level.
One could say he had almost fully grown, but it was as if he hit a wall and ceased to grow.
Why hadn’t Blaugrunn, already similar to most adult levels in terms of dragon heart and mana, been able to mature further?
“Yes, that’s right. I honestly thought I’d reach the adult level quickly after using the ‘Easter Egg’. You know, there’s even that, what was it called? That one-item growth booster.”
“The ‘Growth Accelerator’, you mean?”
“Yes, that’s it!”
When Leeha clapped, Blaugrunn laughed bashfully.
Although Ram Hwayeon couldn’t participate in this conversation at all, she still wore a gentle smile.
After all, she was well-aware of the mental connection between Leeha and Blaugrunn.
“And that challenging battle against Tiamat… Because the previous Lord Bahamut said so, I thought I’d reach the adult level after that battle. But even right after, there wasn’t much change. I started experiencing the growing pains of reaching the adult level… I think it was a gift.”
“A gift?”
“Yes. The last gift left by the late Lord Bahamut.”
“A gift from Lord Bahamut… What did you receive?”
His face still had a smile. However, it wasn’t a delighted or warm feeling.
With a laugh closer to bitter, Blaugrunn nodded.
“It was an incident I’d never experienced even in my past life.”
“An incident, you say…”
“The death of a king. Much closer and more intimate than the human concept of a king—someone who was a mental anchor for me… The pillar had been broken.”
Even though physically and functionally, Blaugrunn could already surpass many adults, there was one reason he hadn’t matured into an adult level, and that was psychologically.
From Blaugrunn’s tone when he admitted he had arrogance, Leeha could understand.
For someone who thinks they’ve grown enough, further growth would seem unnecessary.
But if he deeply realized his deficiencies…
‘So that’s why you grew.’
No longer would he remain within the egg. One must break out of the egg to grow.
Leeha looked at Blaugrunn. Tears were falling from his eyes.
When the sorrow stemming from Bahamut’s death touched Leeha’s emotional core again, Blaugrunn wiped his eyes with the sleeve of his loose robe and spoke.
“Oh, by the way, there’s something I want to discuss.”
“Uh, what is it?”
“You mentioned appointing the elder of the chromatic dragons as a part of the red dragon clan, didn’t you?”
“That, um—well, we will think about the method from now on—”
“Isn’t there a more important issue?”
“An important issue?”
Leeha tilted his head in confusion. Seeing his lack of understanding, Ram Hwayeon sighed and shook her head.
“You see, it’s not just the chromatic dragons that lack a leader.”
“Ah, ah! Metal! Then, does that mean the metal dragons as well—”
If the chromatic dragon had an elder, what did the metal dragon have?
Blaugrunn looked at Leeha with resolute eyes.
“Yes. A meeting to elect the new Bahamut was going to be held. Tomorrow, to be precise. I came today to convey that to you, Ha Leeha.”
Hearing his words, Leeha swallowed dryly. Finally, tomorrow, a new Platinum Dragon might be elected.
And within that process…
“Blaugrunn, are you…?”
“Of course. I am one of the candidates too. They were considering all metal dragons at the adult level and above.”
His partner dragon was included as well.
Therefore, how should he act?
* * *
Even after Blaugrunn left, Leeha remained outside Ram Hwayeon’s office.
Ram Hwayeon was barely managing the piled-up work due to playing with Leeha, but her eyes frequently glanced at him.
“Why are you so anxious?”
“Huh? Anxious? Me? What do you mean I’m anxious?”
Leeha responded hastily with a startled expression, yet he couldn’t deceive Ram Hwayeon’s eyes.
“It’s because of Bahamut, right? Normally, you would’ve gone hunting somewhere with adult-level Blaugrunn by now. That gun of yours became ‘mythical grade’, didn’t it? Stronger weapon and stronger partner… Normally, Ha Leeha wouldn’t be able to stay idle like this.”
Even after Blaugrunn left, Ram Hwayeon recalled the state from before the chromatic dragons invaded.
She persistently asked about Leeha’s unreachable location, and he explained visiting the illusion space for Black Bass’s test.
Leeha hadn’t even boasted about his gun becoming a mythical grade, so Ram Hwayeon could accurately grasp his current state.
— Hehehe… The Bearer’s partner, huh? It’s painfully correct. Why waste time here? You, as the Bearer, need to grow more to devour my original form. —
“I know. I know, but, what should I say… I feel restless.”
— You just need to devour the chromatic dragons. Hehe… Eating anything is best when you’re feeling down. The best thing among them is, of course, blood. —
“Please, stop with those edgy words.”
As Leeha babbled with Black Bass, Ram Hwayeon laughed.
To her, it appeared as if he were talking to himself. She hastily organized her papers and approached Leeha.
“Are you worried?”
“Worried? Me?”
Ram Hwayeon sat next to Leeha. She rested her chin in her hand, moving slowly.
Even as Leeha tried to distance himself slightly, she slid closer to him.
Ram Hwayeon’s eyes directly met Leeha’s.
“Yes. You have that expression when you have a lot on your mind… Since you heard Blaugrunn’s words, you’ve been wearing that expression, which means you’re dwelling a lot on something related to the metal dragons. Doesn’t that lead to only one conclusion?”
As if reading his mind.
“What… conclusion?”
“That Blaugrunn will become Bahamut.”
“What, no, I, I don’t! I wasn’t thinking that!”
Leeha retorted frantically with a mortified expression, but he couldn’t fool Ram Hwayeon.
She probably knew. What he was truly thinking.
“You’re even worrying about it happening. Not hoping for it, not striving for it, but treating it as a set fact that ‘it’s already happened’ and fretting over what comes next. Am I wrong?”
Moreover, when she laid out undeniable reasoning, it made him all the more embarrassed.
Leeha wanted to say she was wrong, but in the end, he couldn’t find anything to argue with.
Sighing deeply, nodding was all he could manage.
It seemed that Leeha had stayed there so far because he might have wanted to consult with Ram Hwayeon about his concerns.
“Yes, exactly. So, what should I do? Of course, it would be great, but… how should I put it, it’s too—”
“Too much responsibility?”
“Yes. It’s the Platinum Dragon! The leader, king, lord of the Metal Dragons! Gaining the authority to command all the Metal Dragons! If I get that, if I obtain it—”
Wouldn’t the responsibility in Middle Earth become too overwhelming?
Ram Hwayeon watched Leeha intently as he spoke seriously, his eyes bright with earnestness.
She didn’t respond verbally.
Instead, as she remained silent, Leeha continued to speak.
“—Of course, it would be the best! But there’s a high chance it won’t happen! Well, there’s Alexander’s Bailephus too! And Ram Hwajung’s Arzenmacht as well! Besides, there are numerous Ancient Dragons that are formidable! It might not be Blaugrunn! But if he did? If it actually happens?”
Leeha was confused for that very reason. Ram Hwayeon still did not utter a word.
Even though Leeha’s words might have seemed frustrating, she neither rebuked nor criticized him.
Without saying a single word, she merely looked at him.
“You’re just like an oppa.”
“What, huh?”
“You’re so invested in this game, paying so much attention to the game’s worldview, empathizing with NPCs… I think only you would do this, oppa.”
She smiled and cautiously reached out her hand.
In a slow motion, she brushed away Leeha’s locks of hair, and Leeha was unable to react.
“You probably think I’m someone who plans for every eventuality, right?”
“Uh, uh… If you didn’t go that far, you wouldn’t have become the headquarters manager of the Ram Long Group.”
Leeha knew it wasn’t because of her lineage but because of her own effort. He nodded as if bewitched, responding to her.
But Ram Hwayeon shook her head, listening to Leeha’s words.
“It’s not like that.”
“Huh?”
“Do you know my secret, oppa?”
“What… is it?”
“‘Postpone today’s tasks to tomorrow, and don’t do tomorrow’s tasks.'”
“… Huh? What?”
Leeha doubted his ears for a moment. Ram Hwayeon’s words were so unexpected that a faint laugh escaped him a beat later.
What could this iron-blooded woman, known for pulling even the day after tomorrow’s work to today, possibly mean?
With a relaxed demeanor as if she knew what Leeha was thinking, Ram Hwayeon spoke.
“Of course, it depends on what that ‘task’ means.”
“What is it, then?”
Her fingers, which had been twirling his hair, now reached his cheek, and she gave him a light pinch as she spoke.
“Concerns. There’s nothing to gain by taking that on first. Making contingency plans and worrying are two different things.”
“Hmm…”
To devise a contingency plan, one must analyze the problem, and if analysis is inadequate or there’s no solution, wouldn’t worries inevitably seep out?
Leeha found it difficult to understand exactly what Ram Hwayeon meant. Perhaps it was because her fingers, gently touching his cheek, felt warm.
“Do what you’re good at, oppa.”
“What I’m good at?”
“Yes, instead of worrying, focus on what you’re good at. I haven’t lived a long life or worked a long time in this industry, but… there’s one thing I know for sure.”
“… What’s that?”
Now, Ram Hwayeon’s palm was completely caressing Leeha’s cheek.
Although it seemed like the gender roles were reversed, it was not a strange scene at all.
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Leeha could feel her love.
“It’s better to repeat one thing ten thousand times than to do ten thousand different things once.”
The thing he could do best. That wasn’t a concern.
He had been doing it since he was a child, and even after losing the lower half of his body, he continued.
And it was the very skill he regained in Middle Earth.
Ram Hwayeon’s hand, which had been caressing Leeha’s cheek, stopped. His eyes began to ignite again.
“By the way, what I just said, it was Bruce―”
“Thank you, Hwayeon.”
“―Lee―”
Ram Hwayeon couldn’t continue her words. Her lips were being pressed by Leeha’s.
Leeha had made up his mind.
No matter what happened, he was ready to express his opinion.
* * *
It was now an ownerless lair, yet it was not empty. Leeha recognized all the faces there.
In the lair of the deceased Bahamut, all the Metal Dragons of adult class and above were gathered.
All had transformed into human forms; however, real humans were only three, including Leeha.
“Alexander, Ram Hwajung, it’s been a while. Ah, perhaps not that long?”
“Hmm.”
“Oppa.”
Alexander nodded but did not express much delight towards Leeha. It had indeed been a long time since the number one ranker appeared this tense.
‘It’s typical of Ram Hwajung. But today… it seems different.’
As he looked at Ram Hwajung holding Arjenmat’s hand tightly, Leeha could only manage a wry smile.
All three of them were part of the 〈Sacred Alliance〉 and were well-acquainted users as partners of the Metal Dragons.
Yet, the chilly atmosphere likely resulted from today’s happenings.
“Well… shall we then start discussing the selection of the next Platinum Dragon?”
Bailephus opened his mouth.
Though it was a round table with no head seat, given that he was the oldest dragon after Bahamut, all eyes were naturally drawn to him as the chair of this meeting.
“Even though it’s been a while since our last meeting, I believe none of us have forgotten. Any dragon of adult class and above can make recommendations… and the meeting will continue until a unanimous consensus is reached among attendees. Let’s start the first meeting―”
“―Before we begin! May I have a word?”
“Hmm… Ha Leeha?”
Bailephus looked at Leeha with a face full of surprise.
The human users, unlike the dragons seated at the round table, were seated a bit away in special seats.
To interfere in such a situation?
“That brat! Blaugrunn! Even as an adult, you can’t control your partner―”
“Um, excuse me, Zelreja, would you please listen to what I have to say?!”
“How dare you interrupt me―”
“Zelreja.”
“―… Understood, Kurpke.”
A dragon like Zelreja found it hard to suppress her impulses, showcasing her vehemence.
She had been gesturing and glaring at Leeha, but sat down reluctantly due to Kurpke’s intervention, though her eyes were still shooting daggers at Leeha.
“What are you doing, Ha Leeha?”
“Oppa……”
Alexander and Ram Hwajung looked at Leeha with faces full of confusion.
Leeha briefly met their eyes and then turned toward the Metal Dragons who were also watching him.
Among them were the ones whose names Leeha knew, like Kurpke, Zelreja, Arzenmacht, and Bailephus, as well as many whose names were unknown to him. He made eye contact with each one before finally fixing his gaze on Blaugrunn.
Blaugrunn, too, looked back at Leeha, their gazes locked in place.
Leeha nodded. Blaugrunn nodded back.
The conversation had already concluded.
Leeha intended to do what he did best.
In this particular matter, the leader of the Metal Dragons, and the partner of the Platinum Dragon, had agreed there was no room for interference.
As Blaugrunn stood up, he bowed.
“I’m sorry, elders. I have no desire to become the Platinum Dragon. Please withdraw my nomination.”
The impact of his words spread rapidly.
* * *
“What, what!?”
“Blaugrunn! Are you out of your mind?”
“Withdraw? Withdraw? Foolishness! Do you think this is some human prank?”
“Yes, Blaugrunn! Are you—declining the once-in-a-lifetime opportunity that a dragon might never even experience?”
Despite Blaugrunn’s declaration, Zelreja stood unmoved. Kurpke had already cast various debuff spells on her.
Yet, there were plenty of Metal Dragons ready to voice their opinions to Blaugrunn.
“You might want to reconsider your words before Zelreja breaks free from the paralyze spell and charges at you, Blaugrunn.”
Kurpke offered a challenging suggestion, among others.
Even as the crackling sounds emitted from Zelreja’s body, Blaugrunn remained calm and unwavering.
With a calm gaze and firm resolve, he reiterated the ‘conversation previously had with Leeha.’
“I’m sorry. I have no intention of retracting my will. It was the will of the late Bahamut that allowed me to revive and return to the adult stage so swiftly. I have never forgotten his power and will. However… something more important to me exists.”
“Does it have to do with Ha Leeha?”
“Yes, Bailephus. I believed you would understand.”
“Hmm…”
Even Bailephus couldn’t help but simply stroke his beard, masking his embarrassment.
The once playful youngster, Blaugrunn, was nowhere to be seen.
In place of infectious enthusiasm, there now existed a sober and mature way of expressing his intentions.
“What will you do, Bailephus?”
“Even as one with a partner, I fully understand Blaugrunn’s feelings.”
“Thank you―”
“However. Having already possessed the qualities of a Platinum Dragon, stepping down cannot be done merely at your whim. Though your intentions may be considered, the role of ‘Lord’ is to strive for the safety and prosperity of the entire metal dragon race.”
“Yes.”
“To withdraw might imply you lack the desire, and even if everyone here unanimously selects you, could you still stand by those words? Are you saying you would abandon the peace and order that the late Bahamut constantly emphasized?”
Accepting Blaugrunn’s withdrawal immediately was not something Bailephus was prepared to do.
Bailephus spoke sternly. The other Metal Dragons present all fell silent.
The crackling sound resonated faintly, followed by an outburst from a woman.
“What!? Are you going to act so selfishly? And you find accompanying such a fragile human more important than protecting our entire race?”
Zelreja didn’t rush towards Blaugrunn.
Even Leeha could sense how much she was holding herself back.
Thus, Ha Leeha decided it was time for him to step up and exercise at least a minimal level of restraint.
“May I add a word to that?”
Zelreja glared at Leeha and was about to speak, but Leeha spoke first.
“In terms of maintaining peace and order, and for the safety of the Metal Dragons… Hmm, could I suggest something? What do you think of the concept of ‘peaceful coexistence with the Chromatic Dragons’? Wouldn’t achieving just that make maintaining peace among the Metal Dragons much easier?”
“What? Ha Leeha, I know you delivered a great blow to Tiamat. But are you not aware that the Chromatic Dragons and we exist at two polar extremes with entirely different pursuits?”
Bailephus quickly retorted.
Alexander, too, wanted to interject, but Leeha was already nodding and preparing a ‘comeback’.
One of the things he had already discussed with Blaugrunn was exactly this.
“No, not permanent peace or anything like that… For example, if a new leader of the Metal Dragons and a new leader of the Chromatic Dragons agreed to a ’50-year non-aggression pact’ or something like that?”
“If that were possible—”
“For this to happen, what if we could elect a new elder for the Chromatic Dragons… with our help?”
“So! If that were possible—”
“What if it’s possible?”
“Are you trying to play word games with me? No matter if you’re Blaugrunn’s partner, in this sacred meeting—”
“Black Dragon’s top rank, ancient-class, female, Harveti. Red dragon’s top rank, ancient-class, female, Flamme. Although she’s ranked top among Red Dragons, in practice, her strength is akin to the third place in Black Dragons. The election of the new elder for the Chromatic Dragons is virtually confirmed to be from the Black Dragons.”
When Leeha spoke, even Bailephus, who was getting agitated, gradually became silent.
The same went for the other Metal Dragons. Even Zelreja, who had been about to leap up from her chair, couldn’t rashly charge at Leeha.
Leeha, who had completely taken control of the assembly, glanced around.
He believed that all Metal Dragons present had understood the words he had just spoken.
“What can you do, even if you know that?”
Zelreja, the sole one who hadn’t understood, asked.
“Um, Zelreja… what I’m suggesting is that we support the disadvantaged red dragon faction to ensure she becomes the new elder of the Chromatic Dragons.”
Startled at first by Leeha’s response, Zelreja soon adopted a sharp expression.
“If the Chromatic Dragons find out we’re meddling, if it leaks that we helped, the Red Dragons selecting an elder won’t stop the other dragons from acting against us.”
This, indeed, was the biggest concern at hand, and any other metal dragon could have pointed it out if Zelreja hadn’t voiced it.
Leeha had been waiting for this very statement.
As soon as Zelreja finished her question, he and Blaugrunn laughed simultaneously.
“Even though I can’t handle thousands of matters… I can manage one very well.”
“What?”
“Blaugrunn and I. The two of us will handle this. Through the thing I do best. The truth that ‘we’ helped will not remain.”
The target had been identified. The equipment was ready.
And there was someone to control it.
“Ha Leeha! Do you really mean that!”
“Yes, Alexander. Exactly what you’re thinking.”
Leeha intended to conduct a sniper operation.
If he could eliminate every ‘stronger Chromatic Dragon’ than Flamme, the strongest among the Red Dragons, then wouldn’t she become the elder?
The Metal Dragons were all speechless at Leeha’s audacious declaration.
Even Alexander and Ram Hwajung widened their eyes at Leeha.
It was an improbable proposition.
Yet…
If it were Ha Leeha.
Oppa…
Might be able to do it.
The fact that they were even entertaining the thought astonished both Alexander and Ram Hwajung, who were geniuses of Middle Earth and knew better than anyone how impossible it objectively sounded.
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About 15 seconds after the hall had fallen completely silent, Leeha added a remark as he looked at them.
At that moment, Alexander and Ram Hwajung had to change their thoughts.
“Oh, by the way, that famous saying is by Bruce Lee, or should I say, Lee Suryong? ‘I fear not the man who has practiced 10,000 kicks once, but I fear the man who has practiced one kick 10,000 times.’ My girlfriend told me. She’s really amazing. I miss her.”
Could such a blockhead really do that?
As if reflecting the thoughts of Alexander and Ram Hwajung, Bailephus barely managed to speak.
“It’s a surprising statement. But Ha Leeha, even if you have such abilities… Even if you manage to evade the tracking of the dragons and slay the Black Dragon, a chromatic dragon will certainly suspect. There’s no way the red dragon would easily accept such a situation. The lineage of Kuzgunak’sh’s blood—”
“Yes, and that concludes our conversation.”
Leeha’s expression changed rapidly. Bailephus, who had just regained his composure, wore a struck expression once more.
“—What? How?”
“You also played a part, Bailephus.”
“I did?”
To the gold dragon, who had no idea of the situation, Leeha explained in detail.
It was an event that occurred last night while he was sharing a deep kiss with Ram Hwayeon.
* * *
As soon as Leeha received the contact from Arev, he called Blaugrunn.
No matter how much he trusted the red dragon, he felt uneasy going alone.
“Do you sense it?”
“Yes. There’s no lair nearby. It seems to be an area unrelated to them. I sense four dragon presences. They don’t seem to have any intention to attack. There’s also no sign of humans.”
“Hm, if Blaugrunn noticed, they must have as well, right?”
“That should be the case. They aren’t hiding it on purpose.”
Although Blaugrunn spoke quietly, the confidence in his voice was enough to surprise Leeha.
Did it mean he could handle an ambush from four dragons?
Or could he speak confidently because he was with Leeha? Whatever the case, it was a situation that felt good for Leeha.
‘It’s not Minis. This is Kraven’s territory.’
One of the worries Leeha had after Arev specified the meeting location was the possibility of encountering agents from Minis.
Even during the ongoing 『Sacred Alliance』, the two nations were embroiled in an undercover war.
In other words, Leeha controlling the chromatic dragons as he wished was not something the agents of Minis would welcome.
Leeha understood how significant the loss of such power was, and thus, he decided it was imperative not to get caught by certain individuals from Minis.
‘Cheka.’
A fanatic who cared only about Minis, ignoring both the interests of humanity and the continent.
He was likely to interpret Leeha’s actions as ‘a member of Fibiel trying to control Minis’s dragon.’
Leeha thought that being caught by such an obstinate “concept zealot” would only lead to unnecessary annoyance.
Leeha stopped after walking a while at a reasonable pace.
It was one of the mountain ranges at the border of Kraven and Minis, but there was no user, nor any monster nearby.
It was easy to speculate that the guests who had arrived early had organized the area.
“Greetings. I am Ha Leeha, the human who received the last message of Kuzgunak’sh’s blood.”
Shwaaa!
Before words could settle, four flashes of light lavender burst forth in front of Leeha.
He thought of Arev and three Red Dragons because of their distinctive hair color. They all had commonality in their striking red hair.
The Red Dragons were approaching Leeha. Their steps were calm, but it was by no means a friendly encounter.
“If Hwayeon were here, it would look picturesque.”
This sudden thought brought a faint smile to Leeha’s face. Arev, who noticed this, flinched momentarily.
Blaugrunn, sensing Arev’s unease, whispered to Leeha, contemplating a ‘worst-case scenario.’
However, Leeha stood still, unflinching, and revealed everything about himself before the Red Dragons.
“I see. I understand.”
The woman at the forefront of the group spoke.
She sported slightly faded red hair styled in a sleek updo—a look that contrasted with Arev’s—and her face was unmarked by age, yet her deep gaze hinted at advanced years.
The woman approached Leeha, coming within very near proximity.
She wasn’t armed, dressed in non-combat attire, nor did she carry any weapons.
“Indeed… I can sense Elder hyung Kuzi’s spirit.”
Yet, each time her nose twitched near Leeha, Blaugrunn tensed.
“Ha Leeha are you alright?”
“Yes, I’m alright.”
However, Leeha remained calm. Unlike Blaugrunn, he felt something about the woman.
“She’s definitely the leader. She might be…”
The top-ranked red dragon.
“My name is Flamme. I heard from Arev. I extend my gratitude to the human who fulfilled Orabang’s wish.”
If Bahamut was a playful grandfather, Flamme was closer to a grandmother who forgives her grandchild’s antics.
Seeing the red dragon, who perfectly embodied the image of gentle yet formidable strength, Leeha bowed his head.
* * *
Shortly after greeting and introducing themselves to Flamme, she created a grand mana barrier around them.
Thinking of it as a spatial barrier of sorts, Leeha asked Blaugrunn about it, but the response was that it was a shield meant to ‘block mana detection from other dragons.’
“That’s right, even with SONAR detection, if something suddenly ‘blocks’, it actually makes people more suspicious.”
If the rebound from the ultrasonic wave returns quicker than expected or if there’s a point where the ultrasonic wave’s progression is blocked compared to the surrounding space?
Wouldn’t it be natural to think that ‘something is there’?
Thus, a barrier to prevent location detection paradoxically made it easier to trace back, creating an optimum condition for detection—a paradox of the location detection barrier.
But now?
Leeha could hear Blaugrunn’s excited voice.
“Remarkable. The control of mana surpasses mine by several levels. Unlike conventional barriers that hide by disrupting mana flow… meaning mana is flowing within this barrier.”
According to Blaugrunn, the barrier created by Flamme could gently absorb and let the detecting mana flow while also ensuring that those inside the barrier remained undetected.
“Oh, is it a kind of absorption stealth technology? I don’t really know, but it must mean advanced camouflage, right?”
“It’s an unbelievably amazing technology. It’s something even Bailephus couldn’t achieve.”
Leeha almost turned to look at Blaugrunn but managed to hold himself back. A dragon that handled mana more skillfully than Bailephus?
‘No, it might be possible. If it’s of Ancient level… Moreover, Bailephus is a ‘balanced type’ dragon, not a ‘specialized type’ in any category.’
One of his characteristics was that he wore golden armor and wielded a sword while casting magic in his human form.
Although he could handle both to a certain level, his proficiency in each was slightly lower compared to a dragon specialized in one aspect.
‘Nevertheless, being stronger than a typical specialized Ancient-level dragon… That’s why Alexander is often criticized as an overpowered character.’
Leeha briefly regarded the dragon, said to handle mana more masterfully than Bailephus, with eyes of reverence.
Flamme noticed Leeha’s expression and unexpectedly spoke up.
“Are you surprised?”
“Oh, yes. I was trying to act like I wasn’t, but… you are more incredible than I anticipated.”
Flamme smiled kindly. Seeing that face, Leeha couldn’t help but smile back naturally.
“You are a candid human child.”
In contrast to the other red dragons like Arev who were in a state of alert, Flamme, the most important figure, seemed extremely composed. Leeha thought that this calmness stemmed from her power.
Blaugrunn, who had already surpassed most adult levels, acknowledged such strength.
Even Flamme’s mana skills surprised Blaugrunn, a ‘mage type’ dragon specialized in magic.
Despite many chromatic dragons dying in protecting Tiamat, the balance between chromatic dragons and metal dragons was still maintained.
Leeha pondered for a moment while looking at her. At this moment, bringing up the topic of Tiamat would be meaningless.
Leeha clearly understood the first thing he needed to do to capture the attention of the red dragons.
“It was unfortunate about Kuzgunak’sh.”
Establishing relations with Kuzgunak’sh had to be the top priority. He anticipated a significant acquaintance with Kuzgunak’sh, given that the dragon could sense accomplishments related to Kuzgunak’sh through scent, as he heard from Arev.
As someone who killed Kuzgunak’sh and as an Ancient Dragon Slayer, Leeha deeply bowed to Flamme.
Flamme showed no reaction.
“I didn’t intend to, either… eh?”
However, Leeha had to pause during his speech.
Although Flamme’s face still held the same unwavering smile, the difference was the aura emanating from her.
Leeha felt the pressure, as if he should worry about her tearing him apart with a smiling face. Mana began to gather in Blaugrunn’s hands, a sign of tension building.
Arev and the other red dragons subtly increased their distance. If Flamme subdued Leeha and the remaining dragons subdued Blaugrunn?
He hadn’t even loaded his magazine, so even if he reacted quickly, it might have been difficult for him to fight.
In this precarious situation, all Leeha could do was to be sincere and give his utmost.
“It was… inevitable. It was because of, among other things, the correlation with the Demon King’s Fragment, and most importantly, Kuzgunak’sh’s wishes manifesting in such a way, was something even he wouldn’t have wanted! In fact, this fact was― It was identified not by the chromatic dragons who turned a blind eye but by Bailephus, a gold dragon, a metal dragon. Kuzgunak’sh, even after death, couldn’t think of anyone to rely on other than Bailephus, while those who neglected him were the chromatic dragons, weren’t they? I, Bailephus, and Blaugrunn here, we merely fulfilled his wish! If you wish to refute―”
“Yes, that is correct.”
Whoosh.
It was like the feeling when a sudden gust of wind disappeared. The overwhelming aura that seemed poised to kill Leeha vanished entirely.
“… Pardon?”
Leeha looked at Flamme. Although she appeared to be smiling, Leeha sensed sadness on her face.
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The eyes seemed to be staring at Leeha, yet they were thinking of something beyond him.
“Orabeoni was always like that. Even if everyone tried to dissuade him, if he thought he was right, he would push through obstinately. He didn’t choose the means and methods, even when faced with criticism from those around him… I was always on his side. At least in my heart… I was on orabeoni’s side.”
Leeha quietly nodded while looking at Flamme. There was no need to add anything to her words.
When he realized that tears were welling up in Flamme’s eyes, Leeha no longer felt the necessity to assert anything with his own opinions.
“There were many times I wanted to step up, but the power of Onyx was just too strong, too… above all, Labatt, that foolish one was following Onyx like a shadow, so I—”
“Grandmother.”
“It’s alright, Arev child.”
As Arev attempted to approach Flamme, she stopped him. Flamme took a moment to catch her breath and then looked at Leeha.
Leeha thought she certainly had a strong presence, but that her physical condition wasn’t good.
A dragon suffering from a physical illness was unthinkable. Considering her words and attitude about Kuzgunak’sh’s and Labatle, it was certainly a sickness of the heart.
‘She seems to be set as an AI that reacts sensitively.’
If so, wasn’t that a good thing? Leeha took a step closer to Flamme. Arev flinched for a moment, but Flamme allowed Leeha to approach.
Leeha took the hand of the elderly woman with red-tinted hair and a scarf.
“In that case, Flamme-nim. To prevent the same painful events from happening to both the metal dragons and chromatic dragons… To prevent a second Kuzgunak’sh’s incident… Can you assist me?”
“If I can, I would help. But, human child, what are you trying to do? How do you intend to assist me?”
“I am a human who has been despised by the chromatic dragons. If it wasn’t for Kuzgunak’sh’s message, you all might have torn me apart as well. Other chromatic dragons may still be trying to do so now. However… I might be able to participate in the election of the elder dragon, correct?”
〈Achievement: Freedom to the Dragons! (S)〉
Reward: Eligible to attend the election for the next leader.
Leeha wanted to confirm the achievement’s reward.
“The fact that you killed Onyx is known by most of our clan. They may try to kill you the moment the meeting ends, but you’ll be fine in the meeting place. I can also protect you.”
“Good. Then… Could I ask you a rude question?”
Countless thoughts swirled in Leeha’s mind.
Thanks to the advice he had just received from Ram Hwayeon, he was clearly aware of what he needed to do.
The question was whether the chromatic dragons would accept it.
“When it comes to rude questions, not asking is usually the best way, human child.”
“Yes, of course. Ah, a wise answer. However, it was a necessary question, so I mentioned it preemptively. What I want to know is…”
Leeha cleared his throat as he listened to Flamme’s sagacious advice. Though they varied in color, the chromatic dragons were generally classified as the same species; would they accept this issue?
Leeha quietly asked.
“How many black dragons stronger than Flamme-nim are there, and do you know the locations of their lairs?”
“…… Are you planning to kill them?”
“Yes.”
“You asked about a stronger… Dragon, and then vowed to kill them all.”
In other words, wasn’t this a display of confidence in the ability to kill even the red dragon Flamme on the spot?
Arev was ready to retort after grasping the meaning just then, but the person concerned, Flamme, was not angry at all.
“That’s why I mentioned it might be an impolite question.”
“Ohohoh… I see. Entertaining. However, human child, the seat made of blood calls for a bloody revenge. Even if you kill all three Black Dragons that possess skill similar to or greater than mine… They will never lift their suspicions. You’ve already met him, the grandson of Onyx, Seoryu, won’t either.”
“Seoryu, that Black Dragon, right?”
Leeha asked Arev, who nodded in affirmation.
“Yes, indeed. He is very ambitious. Although he wants to be an elder himself, knowing his limitations, he doesn’t step forward to act. In fact, the Black Dragons being discussed as candidates for the elder are all of different bloodlines from Onyx, which he resents… Nonetheless, he believes that the next elder should be a Black Dragon.”
“… So, he’s trying to get indebted and then aim to become the elder after next?”
“Moreover, he’s already doubting our Red dragon clan, reaching out to me as soon as I returned to my lair; hence even if you, Ha Leeha, can eliminate the Black Dragon elders…”
The aftermath would be anything but facile.
The issue was not simply the act of killing, but the clean-up ensuing it, which was inherently more problematic.
Listening to the grave discussion between Flamme and Arev, Blaugrunn grew serious as well. Leeha’s intent to kill the Black Dragons was already understood.
But how? What to do with the suspicious Seoryu?
―Do you have a plan for handling the aftermath, Ha Leeha? If Seoryu the Dragon must be killed as well… It would then be necessary to deal with the Blue Dragon that came along, and if things unfold in such a way, Arev, the red dragon, will inevitably become the target of suspicion from other colored clans.
Blaugrunn was also grasping the entire flow. Thus, questions were inevitable.
Even the massively developed adult dragon’s AI couldn’t come up with an immediate answer. How do they intend to navigate through this?
Even as Blaugrunn voiced his concerned question, Leeha seemed somewhat dazed.
“Oh? Hmm! Yes. Uh… I think I can somehow manage. The crucial things are two, right? It’s not something the Metal Dragons did, nor something the Red Dragons did. As long as it doesn’t get pinned on either, it should be fine, right?”
Suddenly snapping back to his senses, Leeha startled himself.
Watching Leeha count on his fingers, Flamme shook her head.
“… Human child, the mere involvement of you, who already belongs to Bahamut’s covenant, would already raise doubts about the Metal Dragons’ interference.”
“Hmm, hmm, then in addition to the first two, there needs to be ‘It wasn’t done by the human, Ha Leeha’, right? Isn’t that so?”
The attention required consisted of three things in total.
Listening to Leeha’s words, all the dragons present tilted their heads. Was there a way to kill the Black Dragons while satisfying those three conditions?
Leeha, unaware of the bewildered expressions of the dragons, unfolded a map.
“Then, Flamme? Could you list the three Black Dragons we should be cautious about? Including their names and locations of their lairs, in order.”
As Leeha squatted by the map to annotate it, Blaugrunn tilted his head.
“Hmm? Ha Leeha, this is—”
“Flamme, and even Arev, praised me highly but… In reality, the dragon known as Seoryu might not be as shrewd as he seems. Otherwise, he wouldn’t have missed noticing such things.”
As Leeha grinned, Flamme also looked at the map with a faint smile. The elderly lady, who had maintained a graceful demeanor, suddenly burst into laughter.
“Ha, grandmother?”
“Ahaha! Such a long time since I’ve seen magic. Did the children with such weak mana fail to prepare at all?”
“Th-that’s not really a compliment, is it, lady Flamme? Well, it’s true that since they were caught off guard while they fainted, it all comes down to the same thing.”
Despite Arev’s discomposure, Flamme only continued to laugh. Feeling somewhat embarrassed, Leeha kept repeating his request for Flamme to provide information about the Black Dragons.
In a rather light atmosphere, compared to the tasks ahead, ‘Leeha’ noticed the letters T1, t2, t3, and T4 flashing in one corner of the Minis roadmap obtained from Cheka.
Arev paced left and right, looking at the map with a baffled expression before glancing at Leeha. The T4 lettering was subtly trembling.
“…… Even I?”
Target One, two, three, and Four. These were marks left behind from the four chromatic dragons that had assaulted Ram Hwayeon’s fortress.
* * *
Having finished their explanation to the Metal Dragons, Leeha and Blaugrunn left Bahamut’s lair. It was a decision that was almost like forfeiting not just candidacy, but voting rights as well.
Yet, his expression wasn’t gloomy.
“Do you believe in it to that extent?”
“Of course. The legacy of the previous Bahamut is the strong bond among us remaining kindred, isn’t it?”
“Hmm, still… Well, I could have waited for a day or two longer anyway, so I thought that Blaugrunn should have attended the meeting too.”
When Leeha crossed his arms and spoke in a slightly disappointed tone, Blaugrunn just smiled. Both of them had shared a substantial amount of information already, but Blaugrunn had his own reason for hastening.
“Finishing the Chromatic Dragon matters promptly allows Ha Leeha-nim to venture to ‘Laputa’ with peace at heart, doesn’t it?”
“Ah!? So you thought of that…”
There were only a few days left. Soon, the personnel heading to the eastern New Continent would be roughly decided, teams would be organized, and they’d depart immediately.
In other words, spending today on meetings related to Bahamut would practically leave no room to handle the chromatic dragon affairs!
“I would like to go this time too, you know. The research on ‘Quantum Sand’ that Leeha-nim brought last time was quite interesting. Accompanying Leeha-nim would make for even more fascinating adventures, wouldn’t it?”
When Blaugrunn winked at him after Leeha looked at him in surprise, Leeha cleared his throat and turned his head.
‘If only Hwayeon were here, she would have whispered something in my ear again.’
Blaugrunn’s playful gesture wouldn’t have gone unnoticed. With his unique teal long hair and golden proportions, Blaugrunn was a strikingly handsome man, enough to fluster even someone as close to him as Leeha.
As they walked together, Leeha spoke up again, almost as if he remembered something anew.
“Even so, no one seems too upset, right?”
“More likely, they’re so taken aback that they’re at a loss for words.”
“No, I thought everyone would cheer if you announced your withdrawal, Blaugrunn. But seeing that they’re not reacting like that, it seems the Metal Dragons are indeed impressive.”
“Even if they’re pleased, it’s not courteous to show such feelings in such a setting, wouldn’t you say?”
Blaugrunn replied with a light laugh. Leeha nodded slightly, considering his words.
Some of the Metal Dragons still present at the meeting might have held back their true feelings of joy, but there were likely others who genuinely regretted Blaugrunn’s resignation.
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As Leeha thought about the dragon who seemed most deeply regretful, he began to speak.
“Shouldn’t we give a gift to Zelreja-nim later?”
“I appreciate your thoughtfulness. I didn’t expect Zelreja-nim to react that way either.”
It was quite clear that her anger stemmed entirely from disappointment. In times when genuine voices were vanishing from concern for others, Leeha found her response genuinely endearing.
“You know what I mean. Could it be that Zelreja-nim actually likes Blaugrunn-ssi?”
He wanted to tease him a little.
“Wha— What are you talking about? Zelreja-nim was already much older than me back when I was still at the juvenile class.”
“Blaugrunn-ssi, you are unexpectedly conservative, aren’t you? There are so many older woman-younger man couples these days!”
“Uh, well— I don’t think that’s the case—
When Leeha pretended to be surprised and exaggeratedly reacted, Blaugrunn was flustered. Leeha burst into laughter as he watched him.
“Puhaha! Ah… Now, this is the Blaugrunn I remember. Right.”
“Yes?”
Blaugrunn had not only gained a calm demeanor and way of speaking but also transformed into a mature individual.
Even his unexpected appearance was shocking, not to mention the overwhelming strength he demonstrated, which created a sense of distance for Leeha.
“Well, the sudden maturity made things a bit uncomfortable. Haha, your flustered demeanor hasn’t changed. It’s just like back when you were in the juvenile class.”
Yet, the smile and the redness of his ears when he was embarrassed remained the same. Reconnecting with those past traits gave Leeha a bizarre sense of reassurance.
Blaugrunn saw Leeha smirking at him and mumbled for a moment but didn’t say anything. Leeha could understand perfectly what he wanted to say just from his shy smile.
After a brief awkward silence, Blaugrunn revisited the serious topic at hand.
“Do you have a plan? Fulfilling all three conditions promised to the red dragons while eliminating the Black Dragons will not be easy.”
There was no time to waste with laughter. They had to eliminate the top three currently identified on the side of the Chromatic Dragons under challenging conditions.
Furthermore, taking the journey to Laputa into account meant they had a deadline, making the task far from simple.
Leeha was considering this issue as well. A bit of luck came in the form of helpful information from the Red Dragons, given the unfortunate circumstances.
“Hmm… That’s correct. Still, since we’ve learned a few things, we have no choice but to make it work in our favor. Blaugrunn-ssi, are you managing your mana well?”
Leeha asked while scratching his head. Blaugrunn tilted his head curiously.
“What kind of… mana are you referring to?”
“That is— like this feeling—
Leeha laid out the plans he had formulated in his mind. Blaugrunn was left with his mouth agape from hearing them.
“It seems… possible, but…”
“Then let’s proceed without delay. As Blaugrunn-ssi mentioned, we’re strapped for time.”
Leeha unfurled a map. After confirming the coordinates, Blaugrunn soon teleported with Leeha.
* * *
“Alright, let’s maintain the formation. We’re about to enter his realm soon… Let’s all be thoroughly prepared.”
“Phew… But isn’t this madness? Is it even possible, I wonder.”
“Shh, I won’t entertain such complaints. Above all, according to the plan, we should be arriving soon…”
A group of people walked through a forest densely populated with coniferous trees. Though their weapons varied, they all wore a unified attire.
A Black cloak complemented by a Black mask that concealed half the face.
Anyone could tell that this was a group assembled with a singular purpose.
“The Guardians are emerging.”
Woooorrrr!
As soon as the leading man’s words concluded, a thunderous roar echoed. They were in a high-altitude area and knew exactly where they were, allowing them to promptly prepare for what was to come.
“Everyone, get ready! Pattern 1, we will engage the Sham Bigfoot and the Armored Ogre group first!”
“Kyaaaah―!”
“One o’clock direction! On the trees, siam Bigfoot!”
A massive shadow loomed from the tall trees. The grotesque monster, with two bodies awkwardly attached to one head, was reminiscent of a chimera, yet it was a lifeform of a different caliber compared to the artificial chimera.
“Shoot!”
The Sham Bigfoot attempted to attack the humans by swiftly moving through the trees, utilizing its multiple limbs to grip branches, but the users were quicker in their response.
The ranged attackers unleashed a barrage of attacks at the Sham Bigfoot indiscriminately.
Thud― thud― thud― thud―!
Amid the distraction of the Sham Bigfoot moving through the trees, a tremor arose close to them.
“The Armored Ogre group is also approaching! Detecting the stump!”
It was a horde of heavily armored ogres that reduced the target’s defense with their stomping skill!
“Eleven o’clock, twelve o’clock directions! At least ten of them!”
“We can fight them! Mages, start casting immediately! Fire right away!”
“Whoooarrrr―!”
“Fight onnnnnn!”
As the Armored Ogre horde charged forward, the fast-moving Sham Bigfoot also began targeting the healers, mages, and other support units in the rear.
The battle was intense. The users were relatively well-coordinated, but the monsters were continuously reinforced from all sides.
For each one they managed to take down, three or four more emerged, making it exceedingly difficult to break through their ranks.
“We need to go, just a bit more! A little further!”
“There are stragglers! If we keep going―”
“We can’t! If we try to save them, we’ll all be annihilated. We have to leave them behind if necessary!”
It was not merely about confronting monsters but breaking through the encirclement they created to reach somewhere else, which exacerbated their losses.
Emerging from the coniferous forest, they reached a hilly area. The once-dense trees had considerably thinned out, yet it still resembled the heart of a mountainous region.
Their numbers, which had been over thirty, had now dwindled to less than half.
“We are at the starting point of Pattern 2! From now on, the Mountain Basilisk will appear! If it joins with the Pattern 1 Guardians, we can’t take them down! Especially with our current numbers―”
“Hoo, we must accomplish this!”
“On the verge of death, saying that is―”
“―It’s astonishing. What exactly are you all?”
Whoooosh!
At the moment when the users were shouting out of desperation, a violet-hued burst of light flashed beside them.
There stood an elderly woman with tightly tied Black hair. The users turned to her with astonished eyes. Yet, she looked at the users with an equally perplexed expression.
“You, you are―”
“It’s quite curious. Why? Why have you come here?”
“What do you mean!”
The man leading the users shouted, but the old woman didn’t answer. With a single snap of her fingers, a vast spatial barrier materialized around her.
“No, you can ask that slowly. You cannot escape. It doesn’t even seem like you intended to run from the start.”
“That’s right. We won’t run away!”
“…… That’s exactly what makes it interesting. You don’t have the skills to even break through the first line of defense set by my guardians. Yet, why have you come here, ready to face death?”
The old woman stared, her eyes wide. The users hesitated momentarily, unable to respond.
At that moment, the appearance of the old woman changed.
─────────────…….
After a blinding light exploded, only a fierce dragon with four wings remained, flapping vigorously in the space.
『You knew this was part of my lair, halveti’s domain……. and yet you came to throw away your lives without even the strength to penetrate it! What are your true identities!』
Harveti, the top-ranked Black Dragon, roared fiercely.
Some users, directly hit by the dragon’s roar skill, collapsed, no longer having the strength to stand.
“We, we came to kill you, ha, halveti.”
Only the male user standing at the front managed to shout at the dragon, though the strength in his voice was lacking.
Harveti looked at him briefly, then turned her gaze around. Her eyes were sharp as if inspecting or confirming something.
『So, this place……. You plan to target me with a long-range attack. But no, such tricks won’t work before me, who can even detect the mana of ants……. What were you thinking? Are you truly just a gathering of humans who want to commit suicide?』
Harveti murmured softly. The bizarre situation piqued her curiosity, but as the top-ranked Black Dragon, she wasn’t foolish.
『But it’s a foolish deed. 〈Absolute Barrier〉, 〈Magic Mirror Cloud〉, 〈Black Dragon Scale〉.』
She immediately covered her body with a barrier, strengthened her scales, and spread Black clouds around.
The users felt a greater fear from Harveti, who seemed to merge with the clouds.
『Fine, now I’ll make you reveal the truth. I’ll show you how weak your resolve is to protect whatever it is you came for.』
Harveti, having set up sufficient defenses, descended gradually toward the users. Just before the airborne dragon approached the leading user,
A loud roar echoed in the distance.
『Hmm?』
The roar was heard. Harveti turned her head towards the sound. The cloud’s form allowed those inside to see out, even though nothing could be seen from the outside, so Harveti and the users understood what was happening.
Approaching from outside the cloud towards them was clearly a dragon.
Harveti’s eyes widened.
『…… A dragon— no, no, that is!?』
Flying towards Harveti was another Black Dragon, Seoryu, the grandson of Onyx.
* * *
Harveti’s eyes widened not just from surprise.
『Seoryu! How dare you enter my lair! Don’t you know how disrespectful it is to enter without prior notice—』
『ROOAAARRR—!』
『—You dare! Even though Onyx and I are of the same rank, you behave so arrogantly!』
It was anger. The indignation she felt at the audacious, blood-red dragon roaring and flying towards her made her expression contort with fury.
Harveti was about to fly out of the barrier she had created but then stopped abruptly.
『…… I see. You lot are bait created by Seoryu to lure me out here—no, you risked death to come here with Seoryu to attack me.』
A Black Dragon as suspicious as Harveti would not act recklessly. It made sense to assume there was a connection between the humans who came here at the risk of death and the sudden appearance of the bold family member.
『Seoryu alone cannot handle me. Adding a few bug-like entities to their side won’t change a thing. So, there must be something more…… but whatever trick you’ve concocted, all I need to do is not move from here. Did you think I’d fall into your trap?』
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She had come to a complete stop. Seoryu was still flying towards Harveti. She glanced at it momentarily before casting her spells.
『〈Quadruple Shield〉, 〈Immune to Harm〉, 〈Protect Magic〉.』
“Tsk—damn…”
The man let out a frustrated grunt as he watched the magic around Harveti grow even stronger and thicker. Seeing this, Harveti smiled.
It was proof that her assumptions had been correct.
『Kyaaahhhh—!』
『Breath… So, you expected that harming a fellow of the same clan would put you at a disadvantage with the Elder Council. Tsk tsk… If you had just endured a little longer, you could’ve secured your position as the next elder. In the end, you couldn’t shake off the rashness of being an adult.』
Even as the thick blue aura gathered around Seoryu’s mouth, Harveti didn’t show any signs of tension.
In a situation where she wasn’t even looking at the humans anymore, a clanging sound reverberated from her feet.
The man who had been leading the users was rolling at Harveti’s feet. He couldn’t withstand the backlash of his own attack and was knocked aside.
『Hmm? Hahaha, trying to face me by recruiting humans that can’t even put a scratch on my barrier! Seoryuuu!』
Harveti’s words started with a laugh but ended with a roar. Seoryu, having completed the preparation for its breath attack, had now approached Harveti’s immediate vicinity.
Harveti glared at Seoryu, but it was only for a very brief moment. Even now, she remained vigilant about her surroundings.
Realizing the weakness of the humans at her feet, she was convinced Seoryu wouldn’t use them. The true threat still lay hidden!
However, Harveti could find nothing. She focused once more on Seoryu. Within the breath’s range, just as Seoryu’s mouth finally opened!
She realized.
『What?! You—and ‘this’ is—』
Puhwahhh────────!
Seoryu’s mouth unleashed its breath. The dark green, highly acidic breath, with properties between liquid and gas, poured down onto the several layers of defense barriers Harveti had constructed.
“Ugh!”
“Ev-everyone, get back! We’re being swept away!”
The surrounding humans scattered frantically. As they hurriedly moved, a dull thud echoed.
Thud… It was still unclear what caused the sound. The acidic breath continued to rain down.
“Prepare to counterattack as soon as Seoryu’s breath ends!”
The breath, which seemed like it could go on forever, suddenly ceased.
“Good, it’s now! Everyone—
“… It seems there’s no need to counterattack.”
“—Huh?”
The users halted. They looked up at the Black Dragon hovering in the sky.
Seoryu also turned to look at the users. But neither side made a move nor uttered a word.
“Harveti… is dead.”
“With just one breath—how?”
Understanding the immediate situation took priority.
Seeing Harveti lying in a bizarre pose on the hill, the users were at a loss.
“What… should we do, captain?”
“So, for now… um… well—huh?!”
As the man leading the users hesitated and postponed his decision, a new lavender light flashed beside them.
With Harveti’s death, all of her used skills had been canceled, allowing for a teleport.
Appearing near them was another Black Dragon.
A dragon, its shimmering scales visible even under layers of protective magic, appeared and roared.
『You scoundrels! How dare you defy Lady Harveti!』
The Black Dragon bellowed as it flew straight towards Seoryu. The one caught off guard by the appearance of the dragons were, in fact, the players.
“A, a dragon—block it! Attack!”
At a male voice’s cry, the surviving players hastily began their assault.
However, a significant number of ranged DPS had fallen, and mages required casting time, so there was no immediate way to halt the approaching dragon.
『Seoryu, Seoryu! Do you even realize what you have done! 〈Poison Blaster〉, 〈Acid Claw〉!』
The Ancient-class male Black Dragon promptly used its skills.
“No way! Then—
Even with a mask on, the man’s distorted face was discernible. As he screamed and reached out, Seoryu began to move.
『Kyaaaaah—!』
Seoryu twisted its body and soared through the air. The newly arrived Black Dragon followed in flight.
The two attacks of poison and acid darted towards Seoryu without even registering, as if solely targeting Seoryu.
『I knew of your contemptible ambitions all along! You shall pay the price for dreaming beyond your means!』
Compared to the frenzied flight of the Black Dragon, Seoryu’s flight was simple in contrast.
Moreover, the Black Dragon was closing the distance with Seoryu while continuously launching skills, leaving the players watching from the ground in a difficult situation.
“Boss, if it goes on like this…”
“For now—we have no choice but to wait. There’s nothing we can do…”
“Instead of just waiting, shouldn’t we at least try to do something?”
“Hmm, perhaps. Alright. Attack! Once ready, unleash everything on the newly arrived Black Dragon!”
“Understood!”
After a brief discussion, they prepared to synchronize with Seoryu. Several attacks, including fireballs, were launched skyward, but they failed to breach the Black Dragon’s shield.
『You cursed insects!』
Was it enough that they captured its attention? The players froze at the angry voice coming from above.
『Kyaaaaah—!』
『Seoryuuu!』
However, the moment was fleeting. As Seoryu began casting magic with a roar, the Black Dragon’s attention shifted back to it.
The emerald mana gathering around Seoryu soon solidified and was launched.
Seeing the poison-laden spears and explosive fireballs, the Black Dragon scoffed.
『Foolish! You aimed to hit me with such low-level magic!』
The skills were directed straight at the Black Dragon. Not needing to stand still and take a hit, the Black Dragon swiftly maneuvered for evasion.
Seoryu flew again, but its speed was still not very fast. It didn’t take long for the Black Dragon to catch up to Seoryu.
『You shall not even find solace in rest; regret until your soul rots in hell!』
The Black Dragon began casting skills from behind Seoryu. Flying in a broad arc, Seoryu and the Black Dragon now hovered above the terrain where Harveti had died, right over the heads of the players.
“Attack!”
The players launched their skills again. The Black Dragon only briefly glanced at them. It had no reason to be concerned with skills that couldn’t even breach its shield.
『Kyaaaaah—!』
Dealing with Seoryu’s reverse maneuver and breath attack had been the wiser decision.
『”Breath? How dare an insignificant Adult-class like you use it against me!”』
The Black Dragon swiftly dodged to the side, yet the greenish breath grazed the edge of his shield.
Even to the users, it was evident that the Black Dragon had layered at least five barriers; Seoryu’s breath merely damaged the barriers slightly and should not have harmed his core body.
『”Hmm?!”』
Ordinarily, the Black Dragon would have launched a fierce counterattack.
However, encountering Seoryu’s breath caused the Black Dragon’s Black pupils to contract rapidly.
『”No? I see. You are— you are Seoryu— 』
The dragon, now resembling a startled cat, failed to finish its sentence with its eyes sharply fixated.
Suddenly, all the barriers that had enveloped him disappeared. The reason the barriers vanished was simple.
It was the same reason he was plummeting to the ground.
Seoryu’s breath blasted once more upon the corpse of the already dead and ashen Black Dragon.
Puhwaaaaaaaaaa────!
Even though the situation had ended, Seoryu was not complacent. The users near the dragon’s body shared the same caution.
None of them removed their masks or revealed their identities.
They quietly sent a whisper through the leader of the users to somewhere.
— Is this dragon indeed one of the targets?
— It seems so. Someone is investigating further, and we should hear back soon.
— That’s fortunate, but we need to consider the case of the third dragon arriving.
The man briefly scanned the surroundings with a tense expression. The users who received his signal remained vigilant without releasing their battle stances.
— Yes. Please prepare for now. Wow… But we indeed got startled. Harveti truly lives up to being the number one ranked dragon! To think it sent a whisper at the very moment of impact…
— I was equally surprised. Even though Ha Leeha-ssi reassured us, isn’t the loss greater than mentioned, which is quite concerning.
— Please, don’t say things like that. We’ve got Ram Hwayeon’s approval as well—besides, the benefits we gain this time will enable us to give a substantial contribution to Hwahong. We’ll ensure that the fallen users, I mean, employees, are duly rewarded.
— Hehe, I’ve been waiting to hear that.
Leeha sighed as he whispered with the man. Through his scope, he saw the man making a V sign with his fingers.
— Jachung-ajussi indeed can’t be underestimated.
— Then, I’ll collect everything from the corpse and return.
— Yes. Since the ‘work’ will be done later, for now, just do up to there.
Leeha smiled as he responded. Once he shifted his eyes from the scope, ja-Cheong was no longer visible.
Neither was the immense body of the dragon.
“Let’s see, I’ve got two achievements at least.”
One Shot, One Kill — acquired the Ancient Black Dragon achievement.
The Six Million Millimeter Man achievement has been acquired.
“Heh, six million millimeters, huh. Well, this distance is a bit over 6 kilometers at least.”
From the approximately 6 kilometers away where they stood, all that Leeha could see with the naked eye was the mountain, nothing more.
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“It looks like we’ve just heard from Arev. It turns out the one we just killed was indeed ranked second.”
“Is that so? In that case… Can we get rid of this now?”
“Hmm, let’s wait a bit longer just in case the third-ranked one decides to come.”
“Phew, understood.”
Blaugrunn replied, sweat dripping profusely from him.
Even as he agreed, his arms stretched towards the air were trembling noticeably. Leeha glanced at Blaugrunn and chuckled lightly.
“But it is impressive, isn’t it? Blaugrunn-ssi seems to have gotten really strong. How can you create and control an illusion from this distance? Isn’t the normal summoning range for an illusion around 100 meters?”
“Please don’t compare me to humans. Besides, I’m not your typical adult class.”
Blaugrunn forced a smile. Although he was putting on a brave face, Leeha knew very well how arduous it was for him.
The thin threads of mana extended from the tips of his ten outstretched fingers.
Beyond the midpoint, they became so faint that it was difficult to discern, but to Leeha’s “Distorted Eyes,” they appeared quite clearly.
“Hehe, so should we continue for about two more hours?”
“What? That would be a bit… Even for me, it’s quite taxing. Honestly, controlling an illusion the size of an ‘Adult-class Black Dragon’ from a distance of 6 kilometers is nearly impossible, Ha Leeha.”
The Black Dragons they were facing were actually illusions created by Blaugrunn!
Since dragon’s territory detection capabilities were incredibly expansive, Leeha and Blaugrunn couldn’t get anywhere near it.
Moreover, if other dragons decided to investigate, Blaugrunn’s mana might be discovered. Entering the detection zone was a challenging feat under the current conditions.
However, what if they fought outside the detection range?
What if they waited outside the detection range and lured the target dragons to a point where sniping them would be easier?
This was one of the strategies Leeha had devised.
‘It was a close call, though. Even with the strength of Hwajung’s forces, breaking through the guardian defenses was tough as it was.’
Jachung had led Hwajung’s elite forces, but with merely thirty or so troops, it was tough to break through the guardians protecting the lair of the Ancient-class Black Dragon, Harveti.
That critical moment was even more nerve-racking than worrying about the bullet veering off course due to the wind during the extremely long-range sniper shot of 6 kilometers.
“Still, it was certainly entertaining.”
“Huh? What was?”
While Leeha shivered slightly as he recalled that moment, Blaugrunn spoke up, his face drenched in sweat yet sporting a faint smile.
“The battles within your ‘combat range’, Ha Leeha. To always fight in such locations with unseen enemies… I admire it.”
“Oh, come on, I’m practically immobilized right now because of this whole ‘Joint Stiffness’ thing.”
Leeha shook his head and modestly replied, though in reality, it was no easy feat.
For the Black Bass to possess enough energy to kill a dragon, it had to be effective at not just maximum range, but within effective range, requiring the mobilization of all skills to manage within the 6-kilometer limit.
“No, really. The time it took for Ha Leeha to pull the trigger and for the bullet to hit was 8.7 seconds. Even though I controlled Seoryu’s illusion―you shot considering the point where my fake breath would land; it’s truly…”
“Well… hehe. To be honest, I was aiming for it to hit before the breath reached. In a sense, it allowed Harveti to contact the 2nd rank one since the breath did hit, but… it was risky.”
The velocity at which a bullet is fired cannot be maintained continuously until it hits the target.
Typically, the distance did not greatly affect the speed difference, but the 6,000-meter barrier turned out to be higher than Leeha had anticipated.
“I never expected it to take 1.5 seconds longer. Actually, in reality, it would’ve taken even longer… Is the discrepancy due to Middle Earth’s gravity and physics being about that much? I’ll need to keep this in mind for future sniping.”
The expected arrival time was 7.2 seconds, while the actual arrival time was 8.7 seconds. With a projectile flying at over 800 meters per second, “one second” was a significant difference.
〈Achievement: Six Million Millimeter Man (A+)〉
Congratulations!
You successfully hit a target over 6,000 meters away! What did you think? From now on, you are not just calculating the Earth’s rotation in Middle Earth! If you do not also calculate energy loss due to physical laws, your projectile may only have the destructive power of a “finger flick” upon reaching its target distance. Did you think that would be enough? Oh dear! Then this is as far as you’ll go. Please do not underestimate the miracle of 6,000,000 mm. Remember, the wall of unofficial records created by Middle Earth’s legends awaits you.
Reward: Agility +18
Overall continent-wide reputation 200
You are the first to register the 〈Six Million Millimeter Man〉 achievement.
The first three registrants of this achievement will be recorded in the Hall of Fame with an additional 200% of the existing effect applied.
Effect: Agility +36
Overall continent-wide reputation 400
“It was just as the achievement description said. I need to perfectly calculate the flying force in addition to the trajectory affected by gravity. It’s not just about hitting the target. But is it really justified that a distance of 6 km is only A+ grade? Middle Earth is oddly strict toward snipers.”
Leeha grumbled half-jokingly as he reviewed his achievement.
Leeha himself had accomplished the longest-range sniping across both Middle Earth and reality.
Even Blaugrunn, who was well aware of Leeha’s sniping prowess, would have found the distance astonishing. He expressed “respect” because he had another reason beyond mere astonishment.
“More than anything, to think you’d kill the ancient dragon with just that ‘one shot’…”
As Leeha had resolved, it was not just about punching through the immense distance and hitting a target.
The number one in current combat power rankings among chromatic dragons, the oldest surviving Black Dragon, ancient-class dragon.
To have a destructive power strong enough to kill her in one strike was overwhelming.
―Haha, this dragon underestimates the Bearer too much. If I ever get the chance, I’d like to destroy his heart.―
“Don’t say nonsense, Black. Even though he has already experienced it once.”
“Excuse me? What did you say?”
“Nothing! Ahem, I didn’t say anything.”
Leeha hastily covered it up. Although Blaugrunn tilted his head, he couldn’t afford to pay much attention as he still had to focus on the vision of Seoryu.
As Leeha watched for Blaugrunn’s reaction, the bolt of Black Bass glinted once again.
―Haha, I say this out of concern, Bearer, but the power of destruction was no help. While he may have removed a barrier or two, remember that it was I who pierced through everything and chewed up the heart of the senile Black Dragon, its essence.―
“All right, all right.”
There was no need to find the location of the dragon’s heart.
There was no need to choose a brute force method to collide heart to heart for its destruction.
“To think it was just one shot. I knew it was strong, but—this is… it’s too much. The plan was to remove the barrier with 〈Single Destruction〉 skill and then attack.”
Had the overall ability reduction applied to the Ancient-class dragon? Was that why Harveti, whose stats and HP were reduced, died with just one bullet?
The important point was that Harveti had suffered no other damage, falling solely to one bullet from Leeha.
“There, physical defenses were all ignored… Dragon Scale had no defensive power in front of me. ‘Single Destruction’ didn’t just take out a few barriers. It was because there weren’t any barriers—
Black Bass was able to unleash its full potential.
The bullet from Black Bass, activated by the ‘Single Destruction’ skill, obliterated all the shields and barriers assembled by Harveti, ultimately even destroying her Dragon Heart.
Even if one wanted to think otherwise, it was impossible. The Middle Earth system provided ‘achievements’ that backed this up.
〈Achievement: One Shot,One Kill—Ancient Black Dragon (R-)〉
Congratulations!
You have vanquished an 『Ancient Dragon』 in a single hit!
Ancient-class dragons are precious and powerful beings that have dwelled in the timeline of Middle Earth for over 5,000 years. However, now they have fallen to being mere creatures.
You, who killed such a magnificent creature in one blow, are indeed a rarer human than the towering being that lived for 5,000 years!
Among the dragons, 『Black Dragons』 are known for their formidable magical abilities and tough scales, making them difficult opponents.
You, who dispatched one with a single attack! To you, who has achieved an unprecedented feat in Middle Earth’s history, Ancient Dragons now merely serve as sources of combat enjoyment. Whenever you confront dragons or massive creatures, your heart will beat faster.
Reward: 50 Stat Points
+30% damage dealt in battles against Black Dragons below the Ancient-class
+10% to all stats in combat against battlefield or creatures taller than 15m
You are the first registrant of the 〈One Shot,One Kill—Ancient Black Dragon〉 achievement.
The first three registrants will be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and an additional 200% of the existing effect will be applied.
Effect: 100 Stat Points
+60% damage dealt in battles against Ancient-class Black Dragons or below
+20% to all stats in combat against battlefield or creatures taller than 15m
“I think R- grade could be considered inadequate. After all, I took down an Ancient Dragon with a single shot… And now, it may be even easier. Just like when I defeated the 2nd rank Black Dragon.”
The term ‘Ancient-class or below’ implied inclusion of the Ancient-class.
When defeating Harveti, it was due to the synergy of ‘Single Destruction’ skill and Black Bass’s attributes. But what about the second Ancient Dragon?
Wasn’t it said to be more powerful than Flamme, the top-ranked red dragon?
The reason for being able to kill that dragon in one blow was precisely due to the achievement rewards obtained from slaying Harveti.
“An additional damage of a staggering 90% against all Black Dragons below the Ancient-class. On top of that, a stat bonus was applied…”
Currently, an attack with twelve times the agility stat.
With various buffs ‘inflating’ it, when striking from stealth, the instant single-target damage was approaching a staggering 160,000.
Recalculating with agility increased by 30%, that damage rose to 200,000. Adding the +90% additional damage to Black Dragons below the Ancient-class?
“Three… eighty thousand?”
Estimated single-attack damage was about 380,000.
Leeha felt a brief wave of dizziness.
He knew he was strong. He was confident in killing dragons.
But this was a strength that surpassed even his own expectations.
“This is exactly…”
The power of a 『Mythic』 Firearm.
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“What will you do now?”
“Well, it seems there’s no movement from the third-ranked… I guess we should proceed?”
“Frankly, I’m worried about this plan too. Although I created an illusion of Seoryu to attack, they probably didn’t suffer any real damage. Besides, it’s unlikely that the Chromatic Dragons are unaware of what happened to the top-ranked Harveti. They’ll be here to recover the bodies within 20 minutes at most…”
Blaugrunn looked at Leeha with a worried expression.
The attack thought to be by Seoryu was merely an illusion.
It was nothing more than a ‘prank’ that Black Dragons could have noticed immediately, so his attack left no real mark.
In other words, the only traces of attack left on the two dead Black Dragon bodies belonged to Leeha!
“Ha Leeha’s attack left an unparalleled trace, didn’t it? They are likely to notice.”
“Yes, yes, I suppose.”
“… Pardon?”
“It’s natural for them to react that way.”
“If you didn’t quite understand what I said—
“Hehe, Blaugrunn.”
“Yes, Ha Leeha.”
Leeha raised his Black Bass and surveyed the vicinity of the dragon carcasses in the hills.
He observed the trees swaying violently.
It was likely that the Guardian Monsters under the control of Black Dragon Harveti were regaining their senses and returning to normal.
“Since the Guardians are returning to nature, it means the territory marks left by the dragons, you know, mana traces and all won’t remain, right?”
“… Correct. Even if we enter now, the dragons coming later would have difficulty finding us.”
“Okay. That’s all we need. Let’s get ready.”
With a click, Leeha pulled the bolt. Blaugrunn tilted his head in curiosity and asked.
“Sorry? For what—
“Follow me! ‘Ghost in the Shell.'”
Fwooosh──────!
Without answering, Leeha moved immediately.
Due to the constraint of remaining still, he utilized the skill of Black Bass to teleport swiftly.
Blaugrunn, momentarily dazed, scrutinized the hills. In the place where a faint violet glimmered, Leeha was whispering.
“Haha… As expected. You’re remarkable.”
Blaugrunn began dispersing Seoryu’s illusion as he reclaimed his mana.
Leeha watched the scene with admiration.
Even up close, the illusion felt real, and unlike Bahamut’s illusion, even when Black Bass’s muzzle pierced it, the form did not vanish.
“Impressive.”
While Leeha marveled, Blaugrunn activated a skill. The 6 km distance to Leeha was no issue for him.
“Partner: Summon.”
They were partners, after all.
With newfound respect for each other, the operation commenced.
* * *
Ram Hwajung waved her hand.
She conjured a smooth ice mattress over the rough rocks, then lay down on it.
“Boring.”
Though she lay neatly on her side, her expression was more rigid than ever.
This was only natural.
The arm and leg of Alexander, who stood beside Ram Hwajung with folded arms and a stern posture, trembled.
“Hmm. Truly a metal dragon. To choose a leader who will guide the next thousand years or more, such effort is indeed necessary.”
“… Boring.”
They wondered what was happening outside. They did not know. The metal dragon meeting had been progressing for 22 hours.
The meeting had begun when Leeha and Blaugrunn left their seats, and it showed no signs of ending even as Leeha was out slaying two Black Dragons.
The Metal Dragons’ meeting to elect a new Bahamut had proceeded more cautiously and substantially than ever, yet it was caught in a deadlock.
“Just let Kurpke do it!”
“No, Zelreja, I cannot. Having already lost one hyung, I can’t handle such a position while leaving another behind… Let Bailephus, the elder brother, bear it.”
“Impossible. I am already committed. When the time comes to choose between the Metal Clan and my partner, I won’t be able to make a sound judgment.”
The main deadlock was indeed the conflict among the strong candidates.
The one who had gained the backing of most Metal Dragons was not Bailephus but the Ancient Copper Dragon, Kurpke.
Having been the last to converse with the dying Bahamut and sharing his will, Kurpke was considered the most flexible and gentle dragon.
It was a consensus among the dragons that he was the most fitting to carry on the legacy of the former Bahamut.
“You can do it, elder brother. I am… just a feeble dragon who couldn’t even prevent the previous Bahamut’s death. I may manage a bit of mana, but becoming Bahamut with such meager abilities is beyond me.”
However, Kurpke, the person in question, was refusing!
If there was a unanimous decision, they might have forced him, but they couldn’t do so now since some Metal Dragons supported Bailephus.
Zelreja shouted in frustration at Kurpke’s humble demeanor.
“A bit? You are the only one here who can paralyze my movements in under a second! Before anyone else can even start casting, I can punch their jaws off!”
Clenching her fist and standing up, she drew many eyes to her.
Some Ancient Dragons, who favored physical prowess, looked displeased, but she didn’t back down.
“Anyone want to test it? If you can paralyze me with a spell or block me physically, then I’ll admit my defeat. ‘From this distance’, there’s no one here who can stop me.”
Zelreja glared fiercely at the surrounding dragons.
Even though she was still at the Adult stage, her confidence was unparalleled, and in a confined space like Bahamut’s lair, no dragon could match her agility, so no one dared to refute.
Only Kurpke’s words could possibly restrain her.
“Um… Zelreja, how about speaking a bit… more graciously?”
“Well then, please become Bahamut, Kurpke.”
“Proposing impossible terms is not befitting a dragon’s virtue.”
“Oh, this is frustrating!”
Zelreja sighed deeply and sat back down. Bailephus quietly listened to Kurpke’s words, leaning against his chair.
―What do you think, partner? Do you think it would be better for me to become Bahamut?
Simultaneously, Bailephus was conversing with Alexander. Alexander responded with closed eyes, without even looking at Bailephus.
―Yes.
―Is that so? If I become Bahamut, my range of movement will be significantly restricted. The chances of us staying together will diminish.
―Hm… However, support will undoubtedly come out. Just being by my side when I enforce justice would be enough.
―I cannot assure that.
Alexander clenched his teeth at Bailephus’ reply.
Having one’s partner dragon become Bahamut is the greatest honor across Middle Earth.
Once decided, it is a position that no one else can occupy until his dragon is on the verge of death.
‘Moreover, my job as a Dragon Knight…’
It could become a stepping stone to advance to the next stage. What Alexander was contemplating was a secondary job change, and beyond that.
‘It could change.’
Perhaps reaching the 『third job change』, where no one else had set foot.
But this was a significant gamble.
What if, after becoming Bahamut, the leader of all Metal Dragons who influences the entire continent couldn’t stay with him anymore?
Or if, by becoming Bahamut, assigning others as partners, partnering the dragon to someone else?
‘Pairing humans and dragons is one of Bahamut’s unique privileges. It’s not impossible.’
The designation of partner dragons for Alexander, Leeha, and Ram Hwajung had all been made through Bahamut.
If connecting dragons and humans was within Bahamut’s power, severing those ties might also be possible.
If this were to happen, Alexander’s plans could be swept away like ashes in the wind.
In reality, Alexander had been subtly probing, but Bailephus only offered ambiguous answers, making it impossible for Alexander to strongly assert any opinions.
“Is everything alright?”
“I have no interest in Bahamut.”
“I know.”
“Then, let anyone take it.”
“Impossible.”
“Not interesting.”
The situation wasn’t different for Arzenmacht and Ram Hwajung either. Arzenmacht’s name had also risen as a strong candidate for Bahamut.
Unlike other dragons, Arzenmacht had recently faced the Demon King’s Fragment known as “Pyrot-Cocri” and possessed the capability to investigate the Peklo City that she had created.
“No, with my partner.”
However, a dragon with communication issues could hardly express their opinions properly.
After disappointing the dragons who once supported him with just two words, Bailephus merely watched the meeting.
“Elder brother Bailephus is the one who spent the longest time with the former Bahamut. He is more than qualified to uphold the former’s will. Moreover, considering the future age and impending dangers, wouldn’t Bailephus, who has led the vanguard across the world with his human partner, be the most suitable dragon for Bahamut? What do you all think?”
Kurpke continually advocated for Bailephus.
Each time, Bailephus had to show a troubled expression.
Alexander, too, wavered whenever he heard Kurpke’s words or Bailephus’s assertions.
‘Arzenmacht quickly gave up, and Blaugrunn declared withdrawal; it was because of the partner’s will.’
As Ram Hwajung showed no interest in Bahamut, Arzenmacht gave up.
Listening to Leeha’s story made Blaugrunn withdraw. The fact that Bailephus was still swayed by Kurpke’s words indicated that he hadn’t made a complete decision in any direction.
‘If he really wants Bahamut—’
Bailephus would persuade the other dragons backing Kurpke and take the position of Bahamut.
‘If that’s not the case—’
Bailephus would also withdraw.
In such a situation, Kurpke’s influence would naturally grow stronger.
The one who could end all these decisions was himself. Alexander knew well why he hesitated despite needing to make a decisive move.
‘I claimed to enforce justice and protect good…’
For the first time, Alexander felt his own “concept” waver.
Power and influence within Middle Earth equated to power and influence in reality.
The numerous interests that could pour in from the position of Bahamut were shaking the very core of his Middle Earth play.
“Hmmm…”
It was a natural conflict as a human.
Who doesn’t have desires? Alexander reflected on this but found no solace.
Should Middle Earth be regarded as just a game?
Or should it be seen as something more than a game?
Alexander pondered. And at that moment, a bright lavender light flickered from a corner of Bahamut’s lair.
“Hmm?”
“Who…”
“Blaugrunn?”
“Blaugrunn! How did you return?”
The metal dragons were surprised as they looked upon Blaugrunn, who appeared at the meeting.
Having announced his withdrawal from the position, why did he attend the meeting?
“Did you find it impossible to give up? I remember you were the one the former Bahamut cherished the most—
“No, Kurpke-nim.”
“—Huh?”
Blaugrunn quickly declined Kurpke’s words, then glanced around briefly.
He smiled awkwardly.
“The elder of the chromatic dragon has something to say.”
The smile implied that he was fully aware of the repercussions his words would bring.
The eyes of all the metal dragons widened in astonishment.
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“… Elder?”
“The elder of the Chromatic Dragons? Are you saying the Chromatic Dragons have already chosen an elder? There’s no way those creatures would…”
“Impossible… Impossible!”
Even Alexander could sense the workings of the Metal Dragons’ thought processes.
What was the reason Blaugrunn said he was resigning from Bahamut?
‘Precisely what Ha Leeha proposed!’
Alexander, unaware that his fingernails were digging into his skin as he crossed his arms, glared at Blaugrunn.
Blaugrunn nodded towards the Metal Dragons.
“Indeed, the esteemed Ancient red dragon Flamme, who became the elder of the current Chromatic Dragons, has something to propose to the leader of the Metal Dragons.”
“It’s absurd! How? How could such a thing happen? Only twenty hours have passed since you mentioned it! It’s hard enough to believe the deal was finalized, but to handle it in such a short time…”
Even Kurpke, who was never shaken by anything, stood up and shouted in disbelief.
The disturbance in his heart was mirrored in his eyes.
It was surely an incident shocking enough to even startle the Ancient Copper Dragon, who had lived calmly through the ages.
“That is…”
Shwaa!
While Blaugrunn hesitated to speak, a lilac light flickered beside him once more.
This time, Leeha used “Partner: Summon” and appeared in the room.
As soon as Leeha arrived, he waved a piece of paper and approached the round table.
The Metal Dragons looked bewildered, but Leeha paid them no mind and placed the paper on the table, quickly jotting down notes.
“Alright, you’ve all heard the story, right? I came to check if there’s anything else worth including in the agreement, just in case. Let’s see, firstly, on the Lope Continent, neither Metal nor Chromatic Dragons shall invade each other’s territories—
“H-hold on! Ha Leeha! What exactly happened?”
“Hmm? What, haven’t you been told yet?”
Bailephus grabbed Leeha’s wrist.
Leeha looked at Bailephus, then turned his gaze to Blaugrunn. Blaugrunn shook his head.
“I’ve informed them, but given how unconventional our actions were, the elders might still find it hard to believe—
“Oh, you understand it in your head but can’t accept it in your heart, is that it?”
“The wise elders surely understood it.”
Blaugrunn’s polished way of speaking both flattered the Metal Dragons and subtly elevated their own achievements.
Leeha smiled faintly, noticing how different Blaugrunn seemed even on an AI level compared to his juvenile days.
“Hmm, so then, how—
“Could you explain it? Partner of Blaugrunn.”
Should they wait for acceptance?
While Leeha pondered for a moment, Kurpke spoke up, urging.
“How Flamme became a red dragon. If the Black Dragon was defeated… how did you quell that backlash? If you explain, I’m sure we’ll all accept it easily.”
He was the first metal dragon to regain composure, looking at Leeha with a calm expression once more.
Leeha looked at the Metal Dragons, including Kurpke.
Thanks to Kurpke’s serene tone, the Metal Dragons began to sit down one by one, changing their expressions, as Leeha nodded.
“Shall I, then?”
“Stop showing off! Speak, human!”
“Alright, alright. Ahem, where should I start… Maybe from when I took down Black Dragon’s rank 1 and 2.”
Zelreja flinched for a moment, but Leeha felt a smile forming for some reason. Nearly all the Metal Dragons seated around the round table were leaning toward him.
“Alright, how could you leave no trace? Even if the red dragon turned a blind eye, why didn’t the other Chromatic Dragons oppose you?”
“That is…”
With Kurpke’s question, Leeha’s story began.
It happened about five hours after they had slain Harveti and the 2nd rank Black Dragon.
* * *
“How dare a human—the enemy of the Chromatic Dragons—set foot in this place!”
A powerful glow emanated as the white dragon hurled its icy breath.
Leeha, however, remained still, watching the spectacle unfold.
“〈Flame Burst〉.”
With a quiet gesture, Blaugrunn cast a fire spell.
Despite its instantaneous nature, requiring no casting time, its destructive power was of a different dimension entirely.
The energy not only evaporated the icy breath completely but continued towards the white dragon’s body.
In haste, the white dragon executed evasive maneuvers to avoid the attack.
Its expression, which had been furious just moments before, shifted subtly. Surely, it had quickly assessed Blaugrunn’s capabilities.
It realized it was an opponent it couldn’t handle.
“Hmm! A metal dragon! Flamme! What on earth is going on here!”
The white dragon immediately addressed the red dragon standing beside Leeha and Blaugrunn.
Though Flamme spoke in a composed tone, her words were loud enough for every dragon gathered at the emergency meeting in the southern mountains of Minis to hear.
“In light of the deaths of Harveti and Zulmek, the human and the metal dragon here have come to testify. It seems everyone has gathered, so may we proceed to listen?”
The white dragon hesitated briefly at her words, not having a chance to reply.
Other Chromatic Dragons attending the meeting began to stir restlessly.
“That’s nonsense! I wouldn’t have attended this meeting if not for such ridiculous claims! Why does Lady Flamme speak thusly!”
“What do you think is wrong, Karanique?”
“Are you suggesting we should believe that Lady Harveti was defeated by mere humans! Lies, all lies! There’s no way those human creatures could have done such a thing! If we burn down every human village nearby, they’ll be forced to confess the truth! What do you think?”
A robust man with closely-cropped Black hair shouted.
Though past middle age, his skin retained its firmness. Younger than Flamme, but possessing a strength that rivaled hers.
―If they were to actually fight, lady Flamme might lose, don’t you think?
―It’s not easy to predict. He exudes an aura befitting the third-ranked Black Dragon.
Even Leeha and Blaugrunn couldn’t help but feel somewhat tense.
The gathering was indeed due to the deaths of the first-ranked Harveti and the 2nd rank Zulmek among the Chromatic Dragons.
Faced with the sudden news of the consecutive deaths of Black Dragons, the Chromatic Dragons had urgently convened this meeting, with every one of them rushing to fill the seats.
Of course, it was Leeha and Blaugrunn who brought the news and it was the Ancient red dragon, Flamme, who called the assembly.
“I never claimed that humans killed them, Karanique.”
The only confirmed information was the death of “Harveti and Zulmek.”
“Then what happened? No, more importantly, does it make any sense that this human—who dared to injure Queen Tiamat—brought the news of Lady Harveti’s death?”
The quieter Flamme’s voice became, the more Karanique raged.
The White Dragons, as well as the Blue, Yellow, and Green Dragons, did not look favorably upon Leeha. Yet none dared to directly challenge him.
From the perspective of a chromatic dragon, how would Leeha seem?
Though Leeha’s stats had slightly decreased due to the penalty from defeating Tiamat, it was insignificant compared to the aura of buffs emanating from him.
Even an Ancient-class dragon would have found it difficult to stand comfortably under Leeha’s influence.
Furthermore, the power of Blaugrunn beside him, combined with the grandeur of Flamme who protected them, left ordinary chromatic dragons entirely cowed.
“Is it a metal dragon or a human? Flamme, are you losing your senses?”
“Karanique! You’re going too far! You don’t speak like—
“Arev, you don’t know your place. How dare you talk to Karanique like that!”
Arev had stood up to reprimand Karanique but was immediately counterattacked. However, the rebuttal didn’t come from Karanique. It came from Seoryu, the Black Dragon who had been silently sitting next to Karanique.
“Seoryu…”
“Seoryu? Can’t you call him ‘Lord Seoryu’? Insolent fool! Karanique, it seems those red dragons are surely plotting. The human over there, our sworn enemy, recently requested a private talk with Arev. Might they be…”
After scolding Arev again, Seoryu whispered to Karanique. His gaze darkened significantly as he looked between Arev and Flamme.
“A private talk? What reason do you have to converse with the enemy who killed the queen, Arev?”
“… It was only to convey a message from Lord Kuzgunak’sh. Nothing of importance was said.”
Arev bowed his head quietly. The momentum of the Black dragons showed no signs of diminishing.
Leeha watched the scene intently.
‘He didn’t step forward. It would have been natural for him to be the first to attack me… Cautious behavior. Even now, he’s insinuating that I might be in cahoots with the red dragons.’
It was clear that Seoryu wasn’t the type to ignite situations himself. He was the sort to pour fuel on the fire after someone else lit the match. Leeha knew of several such players and NPCs.
‘I know how troublesome it can be to leave those kinds of people alone. I’ve experienced it firsthand.’
Leeha had suffered in the past because of clever individuals. Leeha trusted his instincts.
—Leeha.
—Yes, indeed, he’s a cunning one, even from the first look, he seemed unpleasant…
—But he’s a smart one.
“Huuuuu…”
Leeha took a deep breath. He wasn’t wrong in his thinking. His strategy wasn’t wrong either.
It was bound to succeed.
The plan wasn’t just to elevate the red dragon Flamme to an elder.
“Indeed. I came here to testify, apart from that private talk.”
As Leeha stepped forward, all eyes, including Karanique’s, focused on him.
“What testimony do you claim to have? Do you know who truly killed Lady Harveti and Lord Julmek?”
—Don’t worry. They can’t escape from our trap now. Deceptive ones should be stomped out early on.
“Yes. It was that dragon Seoryu who colluded with the humans, and I witnessed him fighting against the Black dragons.”
Behind this revelation lay one of their stratagems, targeting the downfall of the Black Dragon, Seoryu.
Seoryu’s eyes widened in shock.
“That’s impossible! What— you insolent worm! What nonsense are you speaking! How on earth could I have done such a thing?”
“Here, I have proof.”
Leeha rummaged through his bag and pulled something out. Holding up a small crystal, he opened his mouth to speak.
All eyes, dragon and otherwise, fixed on the crystal.
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“User Ha Leeha from Fibiel and his partner dragon, Blaugrunn have been confirmed to interfere with the selection meeting for the elder of Minis’ chromatic dragons. We shall proceed with the exclusion operation to serve the interests of our homeland.”
This took place not far from the emergency meeting hall of the dragons.
The only reason why the chromatic dragons didn’t notice his presence there was due to an insider — a chromatic dragon itself — who had not only informed him of the meeting but also disclosed a location undetectable by dragon mana.
『Are you certain his actions contradict the interests of our homeland, Cheka?』
“At least, I cannot say that everything he does aligns with the interests of Minis. Until clear evidence is found, we must proceed with the exclusion operation to suspend his actions.”
Cheka, part of Minis’s secret police, had been observing the entire situation from here as soon as they were contacted by the chromatic dragon.
Although he didn’t fully understand why Leeha was involved in such actions, he held strong objections to what Leeha was doing.
『Hmm… But he is a hero of the ‘Sacred Alliance’. I do not doubt your abilities, but should you fail, the fragile relations between the two countries might deteriorate rapidly. Not just the relationship between Fibiel and our homeland, but we may even distance ourselves from the Ezwen Theocracy. If that happens, no matter how close an ally Kraven is, they can’t provide any help.』
“Two Black Dragons have already died. We do not know what Ha Leeha will say here, but it must be part of his machinations. He is a user capable of killing two Ancient-class Black Dragons in a single day, within minutes of each other. Already, Minis’s interests have been compromised by him.”
The fact that the Black Dragons were dead remained unchanged.
『Harveti was—』
“We managed to control it. What it wanted was something our homeland already possessed. Should it become an elder, we could have improved our relations with the chromatic dragons through negotiations.”
For Cheka, who had been striving to establish and manage relations with the chromatic dragons, the current situation was not desirable at all.
The NPC communicating with Cheka through a crystal ball sighed.
『I will report this to His Majesty… but decide wisely. I will not treat this as an official mission.』
“That suffices. After gaining clarity on Ha Leeha’s doings, I will work to ensure our homeland’s interests are served in the election of the chromatic dragon elders. Please try to get in touch with Lark.”
『Understood.』
“Then I will begin.”
Cheka ended the communication. He quickly stored the small crystal ball in his bag.
For an ordinary user, the operation to infiltrate the emergency meeting, where dozens of chromatic dragons were gathered, and extract Leeha would have been unimaginable.
“Hmm.”
However, for Cheka, it was not.
Armed with his unique weapon, the tonfa, he prepared to run. Or rather, he assumed a stance to do so.
Bam—!
If it weren’t for the shadow that appeared suddenly in front of him, Cheka would have dashed straight towards Leeha.
“… What’s going on?”
Cheka frowned.
Could he have been tailed? And not only that, but he hadn’t noticed the stalker until they chose to reveal themselves?
There were not many users throughout Middle Earth capable of such a feat.
And it was precisely why Cheka could recognize him instantly.
“Petyr.”
“Oh ho ho! Surprise!”
The leader of the Midnight Circus, Petyr, was blocking Cheka’s path, dancing excitedly.
* * *
“… What’s the matter? I never asked for your help.”
“Oh ho ho! Does there always need to be a reason? I just came to watch since it seemed like something amusing might happen.”
Watching the continuously bizarre dancing of Petyr, Cheka frowned. He quietly moved a step aside to bypass him.
Petyr matched his step, blocking Cheka’s path once more.
When Cheka took two steps to the opposite side, Petyr mirrored him with two steps, blocking him again.
“… Leeha couldn’t possibly have hired the Midnight Circus to him… what’s your purpose?”
It was an obvious act of interference.
When Cheka asked, Petyr’s movements gradually began to slow down.
With sluggish motion, miyaw spun in the air, and it was almost beautiful to watch.
What did it mean, above all, to perform an aerial cartwheel that required rotational power so slowly?
It meant that Petyr’s physical abilities, which utilized Miyaw’s racial traits within Middle Earth, were beyond imagination.
“Should I say I’m here to watch what the secret police do~ or not~ anakana~? Bwhahahah!”
“Fine. I didn’t expect to have a conversation from the start. Step aside. Or I’ll kill you.”
When the absurd answer was heard again, Cheka nodded.
It meant there was no need for three questions.
He promptly rolled up his sleeves and showed his tonfa to Petyr. Petyr still sneaked around with a playful expression.
Miyaw’s lips were stretched wide into a grin.
“You~? Kill~? Me~? How dare~?”
Now that he had become the leader of the Midnight Circus, and after completing his secondary transformation, how much more powerful had he become?
Cheka did not dwell on such matters. He charged forward immediately.
Though it was a sudden rush, Petyr performed a backflip, then used that rebound to spin forward and extend his hind leg.
As Cheka watched the sharp claws of Miyaw, he raised the tonfa horizontally.
*Thud…*
“Hmm?”
Cheka was momentarily perplexed by the awkward sound and the light sensation touching his arm.
Given the material, when two weapons clashed, there should have been a definite metallic clang.
But what was this sound?
Cheka’s expression grew slightly more distorted as he checked his tonfa. Petyr’s descending foot had inflated like a balloon.
The even more absurd part was that the inflated foot stuck to Cheka’s tonfa like bubblegum!
“Bwhahahah! Surprised? Fun, right!? Ya!”
When Petyr spun his body, Cheka, too, was caught in the rotational momentum and moved with him.
Cheka followed with a hand on the ground, rolling along with Petyr.
“You little—
Petyr specialized in acrobatics utilizing his entire body, and it wasn’t just the application of muscle stats; his movements, powered by the elasticity of his entire body, couldn’t be easily stopped.
Cheka swiveled the tonfa in his right hand, directly aiming it at Petyr’s foot. However, Petyr rolled backward on his hands, pulling the leg attached to the tonfa back, forcing Cheka’s left arm further forward.
Then, as Cheka attempted to thrust with his right hand, his body was flung forward as if pushed by someone.
And if the adhesion of the foot attached to the tonfa was weakened in that state?
*Crack—!*
“Ugh.”
Cheka was tossed away and collided with a tree as if being played with.
Of course, he crossed his tonfa in an X-form to defend, and since it wasn’t a specialized attack in the first place, there was almost no reduction in HP.
But the important thing wasn’t the reduction in HP.
“Is it right to assume that protecting Fibiel’s agent is an official mission of the Midnight Circus leader? You can’t claim ignorance of what it means to do something against the national interest right ‘in front of me’.”
The secret police had a unique skill.
It even applied to foreigners, but his power was maximized when a ‘Minis-affiliated user’ committed an act ‘against Minis’ national interest’!
The cat, which had moved like an acrobat, glared at Cheka with fierce eyes.
It meant that Petyr also understood what it meant for Cheka to seriously use his skill.
“Bwhahahah! And then?”
“Fine. From now on, you’re under arrest based on a confession. 〈Che―”
“I owe you.”
“―ka〉 Huh? What did you say?”
Cheka’s movements, as he was casting a skill, suddenly halted. Petyr’s lips did not move, prompting Cheka to tilt his head in curiosity.
“Did this person say something just now? Or did I hear it wrong?”
The stalemate was broken by Petyr.
Miyahu spoke again, “It’s like the proverb, ‘The cat’s grace’, buhihihihit!”
“Grace… Did Ha Leeha help you in some way?”
Upon hearing about returning a favor, Cheka tilted his head again. Petyr, still without a smile, spoke, “I haven’t fully repaid the debt from when he caught Pyrot-Cocri’s clone.”
“… Your personal issues shouldn’t have any relevance to the national interest. Besides, were there any debts owed by the Midnight Circus then?”
The incident involving Lark had allowed Cheka to understand the situation. However, it was an event from quite some time ago, and Cheka couldn’t grasp the details of Petyr’s circumstances.
Was there an incident from back then that Petyr considered as a debt of gratitude?
While Cheka was lost in thought, a smile began to creep back onto Petyr’s face.
“Buhihihit! Well, yes. More than that… I’d rather not get on the bad side of someone who can slay an Ancient Dragon in one blow! I’m the one who saved you, Cheka. You should start by thanking your life-saver.”
“What, what do you mean? An Ancient Dragon… in one blow?”
Cheka knew all the events had concluded within a day. He was also aware of the series of dragons confronted in close succession.
But in one blow? Could an Ancient Dragon be taken down with a single strike?
Petyr’s voice echoed in Cheka’s mind.
“Then here’s a problem! If I have a debt of gratitude and don’t accept an assassination request for Ha Leeha in the future, does that go against Minis’ national interest or not? Buhihihit! Think carefully!”
“Wait, where are you going―”
Shooo…
Petyr disappeared into the ground as if being sucked into a swamp. Cheka tried to grab him, but Petyr’s figure had already vanished.
Determining it wouldn’t be easy to find him, and seeing as he refused further conversation, Cheka couldn’t extract more information. So, he pondered over the words Petyr left behind.
‘Chasing Pyrot-Cocri caused the Midnight Circus’ leader NPC to turn into a monster. By slaying it, Petyr completed his second job change and ascended to the leader position. Ultimately, Ha Leeha awakened Pyrot-Cocri, revealed its presence, and even handled Pyrot-Cocri’s clone neatly…’
Does he consider that as a debt owed?
And what about the significance of slaying an Ancient Dragon in one blow? Cheka shook his head.
‘That can’t possibly happen. Even the strength of Igor turned vampire wasn’t to that degree.’
He once again aimed to stop Leeha.
Cheka judged that Leeha’s intentions should not be involved in the Elder Dragon’s election.
“Ugh…”
Yet, his feet refused to move freely. What if Petyr’s words were indeed true?
If Ha Leeha had become so strong to slay an Ancient Dragon in a single blow?
Cheka realized his breathing quickening.
It was a natural physiological response. A change in the human body when confronted with a specific emotion. That emotion, of course, was fear.
Fear?
Had he felt fear thinking about Ha Leeha?
Cheka shook his head, his cheeks trembling slightly. Only after did he manage to regulate his breathing.
“Well, if Petyr eventually refuses a request regarding Ha Leeha… or declines an assassination attempt on Fibiel’s key personnel whom Ha Leeha wishes to protect in the Midnight Circus…”
He said this while taking out a teleportation crystal ball.
“It would significantly harm Minis’ national interest. This time, there’s no choice.”
Shoo―!
Cheka promptly retreated.
Believing it wasn’t fear he felt. Believing he wasn’t rationalizing his actions.
Meanwhile, while the two intelligence agents of Minis quarreled, chaos had already erupted in the emergency meeting place of the Chromatic Dragons.
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“Evidence? Evidence that I harmed Lady Harveti?! What kind of absurd slander is this? Isn’t it enough to have harmed Elder Onyx and Queen Tiamat—
“Seoryu child. However, I believe we must verify the evidence presented by this human.”
“Lady Flamme, how can you say such things? Are you being swayed by a human’s silver tongue, which could spark division among dragons? At a time when we must unite with unprecedented strength!”
“Lady Flamme, to me, this appears to be nothing more than a cunning scheme of the Red Dragons to gain power… How can someone as ancient as yourself be deceived by human tricks?”
Seoryu spoke forcefully.
Karanique nodded in agreement, glaring at Flamme.
At those words, Arev was about to explode with anger, but Flamme had already intervened to prevent his outburst.
She was still smiling.
“If it turns out that Seoryu is not responsible, and if we cannot trust this human’s evidence, then I will refuse to accept any position as elder.”
“Lady Flamme!”
“It’s alright, Arev child. If this human’s evidence is false, then I would be guilty of not only implicating Seoryu but also of dishonoring the deceased Harveti and Zulmek. This is the level of resolve one must have.”
As Arev gasped in surprise, the eyes of Karanique and Seoryu, who had been fiercely attacking Flamme, lit up sharply.
“Is that true?”
“Of course it is.”
Flamme’s response to Karanique’s additional confirmation brought a smile to Seoryu’s face.
The courage that only a confident dragon could possess!
“Very well! Come forward, human! Let me see that so-called evidence you claim is mine!”
With his words, Leeha stepped forward. This was a slightly difficult moment for Leeha as well.
It was a sort of ‘ad-lib’ that hadn’t come up during discussions with Blaugrunn, Arev, and Flamme.
‘But… it should be okay.’
What did it mean for Flamme to speak so decisively? It aligned with the idea that she trusted him.
In other words, if he could overcome this hurdle and if his scheme succeeded—
The temporary peace between the Chromatic Dragons and the Metal Dragons would be established.
“Seoryu, the Black Dragon, is of the Adult-class. As you all know, he cannot kill Harveti and Zulmek by himself. Therefore, he collaborated with humans.”
“What nonsense—
“Seoryu. Let us hear him out first.”
“Keh…”
Karanique stood in Seoryu’s way. However, it was clear that Seoryu, whose honor was being directly challenged, wanted to immediately refute Leeha’s words.
“I obtained this evidence directly from the humans. Please take a look.”
Leeha operated the crystal ball.
Moments later, light emanated from the crystal ball, projecting a video. The crystal ball that Leeha held was an item capable of recording and playback.
It showed the recorded version from Jachung, who witnessed Harveti and Zulmek’s deaths.
The video had no sound.
However, it displayed Seoryu battling Harveti and Zulmek, and the humans aiding Seoryu in attacking Harveti and Zulmek.
The dragons couldn’t fully comprehend the damage inflicted, nor what skills were casted and how, just from the video.
What was visible was merely fragmented. However, it was enough.
The Chromatic Dragons, who moments ago were glaring at Leeha and Flamme, began to shift their gaze toward Seoryu.
“You all don’t believe this, do you? This is preposterous slander.”
“But the video—
“Anyone capable of using illusions could have done this. What do you think?”
Yet, Seoryu remained poised.
The grandson of Onyx was not easily shaken. He defended himself without hesitation.
The Chromatic Dragons nodded in agreement.
“I’m disappointed, lady Flamme. My breath isn’t powerful enough to harm Lady Harveti and Zulmek, yet in that fabricated video, I am clearly seen releasing my breath, implying if it were true, their bodies would bear evidence of it!”
Furthermore, he went on the offensive.
Seoryu was smiling.
Since it wasn’t something he had truly done himself, he couldn’t genuinely take pride in it.
“If you hadn’t prepared that, lady Flamme would have―”
“Yes, there is.”
“―W-what?”
And what about Leeha?
“There is. The unique mark of the Black Dragon’s acidic breath… remains on the corpses of Lady Harveti and Zulmek. It is a trace that cannot be mimicked due to its distinct impact, unlike ordinary magic; it bears the unique imprint of the Black Dragon’s breath.”
“This can’t be happening! How could that be―”
There was no way they hadn’t foreseen this.
From the start, one of the conditions in the discussion between Flamme and Leeha had been to ensure no suspicion of attempted assassination by Leeha.
Leeha had already been considering it at that point.
‘Are you sure they won’t catch us, Black?’
―Hehe… With my current state, it’s possible. A Black Dragon? Having absorbed the sour blood of those creatures…―
He’d confirmed it multiple times with Black Bass.
After verifying with Black Bass, he even underwent tests.
The method was so expertly executed that Flamme could confidently risk retiring with it!
―It’s no trouble to exhale 〈Acidic Breath〉.―
〈Black Bass, companion of Primordial Myths〉
(Untradeable)
Effect: Agility +50
Absorb and emit the 『Attributes』 of the target (limited to one time)
(All additional effects of the existing grade are inherited.)
The secret lay in the additional effects attached to the mythical weapon, Black Bass.
Flamme waved her hand.
From a pocket dimension, two corpses tumbled out. Naturally, they belonged to Harveti and Zulmek, their bodies completely covered with 〈Acidic Breath〉, perfectly concealing the gunshot wounds inflicted by Leeha.
Not only Seoryu but all the Chromatic Dragons approached to confirm the ancient dragons’ corpses.
“It’s certain. This is caused by 〈Acidic Breath〉.”
“And it belongs to the Black Dragon. Truly, Seoryu has…”
“No way… This can’t be happening― it can’t be― it’s not true!”
Even Seoryu, who had remained calm, fell into a panic, looking around frantically.
However, the looks from the Chromatic Dragons gazing at him were already decided.
“Seoryu, child. I know you’ve yearned for the elder position as a direct descendant of Onyx. But to be so blatant, even I did not expect it.”
“Don’t say such absurd things! No, I didn’t do it!”
Seoryu attempted to transform immediately, but the number of Chromatic Dragons around him was overwhelming. With public opinion already against him, there was no way for him to escape.
The White, green, and Blue Dragons swiftly subdued Seoryu.
“Ka, Karanique! Karanique! It’s really not me! I didn’t do it!”
“… Seoryu…”
Seoryu cried out desperately, but Karanique only looked at him with disdain.
Even Leeha calculated that the chances of Karanique saving Seoryu were slim, so he wasn’t concerned.
‘It’s the difference between Onyx’s lineage and those who are not such, like Black Dragons. Hehe, lady Flamme too… the very fact she made such a statement means she wanted it used.’
Leeha had flawlessly picked up the hint Flamme had subtly dropped when discussing the Black Dragon’s hierarchy.
“And, Karanique. I believe that a bloody struggle over power within the Black Dragon circle should never occur again. What is your opinion?”
Flamme spoke quietly.
Karanique wore a distressed expression. Leeha found a certain pleasure in watching a dragon with such a face.
Of course, he could only afford to relax like this at the moment.
“I was aware of Seoryu’s greed. But for this one incident―”
“This one incident? Karanique! Isn’t this an unprecedented internal conflict, causing harm to two Ancient Dragons? As the current senior of the Black Dragons, surely you’re not suggesting you’ll shirk responsibility for this event!”
Karanique found himself without an escape route.
Although he couldn’t be directly punished, it was clear that he had been thoroughly defeated.
‘All the Chromatic Dragons’ hearts are…’
They were drawn to Flamme.
Even if unanimity wasn’t achieved, Flamme would soon challenge Karanique to a duel. There was a method to become an Elder by proving oneself as the ‘strongest’, not just through a vote.
‘There’s no way that dragon, Karanique, would accept that. Even if he might be slightly stronger than Flamme at this moment, he’s already been overwhelmed.’
The first and 2nd rank dragons had been defeated by the much lower-ranked Seoryu. What about him, the third rank?
When they discovered the possibility of actual battle overturning rank, the Black Dragon would no longer be able to act recklessly.
Moreover, the presence of Flamme, who seemed just like a kindly grandmother but whose momentum was fully alive again, served as an obstacle to his actions.
What followed unfolded swiftly.
Everyone agreed that a new Elder needed to be elected as soon as possible to prevent such incidents from recurring, and they also agreed that Flamme was well-suited for that Elder position.
“But, but… what happened to Seoryu, that Black Dragon?”
“They said they sealed all the mana of the Dragon Heart. According to Blaugrunn, it’s as good as dead. It will be in a state where no magic can ever be used again, he said.”
Listening to Kurpke, Leeha responded indifferently. Kurpke coughed briefly.
Not everyone was focused on Leeha’s words.
A few dragons were in an excited state while looking at Blaugrunn.
“No, more than that — how about the Black Dragon’s Breath? How did you manage to execute it? Blaugrunn! Have you already reached such a state?”
“Right! Did you copy another dragon’s breath? Even though I lack talent in mana, I know that’s impossible! How did you do it, Blaugrunn?”
In response to Bailephus and Zelreja’s questions, Blaugrunn gave an awkward smile.
Leeha had deliberately omitted ‘how’ it had been done while explaining.
“No, Bailephus-nim. I didn’t do it.”
“Ha Leeha, you…?”
Alexander, who had suddenly entered the scene, was at the center of attention. Listening to Leeha’s stories, he directed a question at Leeha.
Leeha did not answer. He merely smiled.
Alexander displayed a complex expression as he looked at Leeha’s smile. Ha Leeha had killed two Ancient Dragons.
Not only had he killed them, but he had also crafted such a clever strategy that he pinned it on other dragons.
The ambitious Black Dragon among the Chromatic Dragons would eventually become a threat to the Metal Dragons. So, in a sense, Leeha had preemptively removed three dragons who could have been strong suspects.
The plan was so perfect that even the fellow Chromatic Dragons didn’t notice it.
What’s more astounding was that the entire event took only twenty hours to execute.
What was I doing all this time?
“Ha-ha… Ha-ha-ha!”
Alexander suddenly laughed. The attention previously directed at Leeha and Blaugrunn quickly shifted to him.
“Friend, why are you laughing?”
“Bailephus, I’ve been thinking wrong.”
“Hmm? What do you mean by that?”
“I have realized that by lingering around aimlessly, I was on the verge of turning our journey to uphold the frontline and enforce justice into mere illusions because I left my future to others’ choices.”
Alexander turned his back.
Watching him walk toward the exit of Bahamut Lair, Bailephus also wore a faint smile.
Like Leeha and Blaugrunn, Alexander and Bailephus also had much in common.
Watching the departing Alexander, Bailephus got up from his seat.
“Hyung…?”
“Kurpke, entrust the legacy to the predecessors.”
“Yes? What do you mean—
“I will not become Bahamut.”
That day, a new leader of the Metal Dragons was born.
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“Yawwwnn… Ah, I’m so stiff.”
Leeha stretched his arms wide as he yawned. With his hair disheveled, his destination was straight to the computer.
He had just emerged from the meeting of the metal dragon and dedicated an entire day in Middle Earth time, but Leeha had been playing the game non-stop even before then, from the moment he met Arev at Ram Hwayeon’s fortress.
It was only after witnessing the rebirth of Bahamut and the meeting arrangement between the newly elected elder of the Chromatic Dragons that Leeha could log out, having been connected for nearly 30 hours in real-world time.
“Heheh… Hehehe. But it was fun. It was exciting for the first time in a long while.”
Leeha chuckled to himself with puffy eyes.
The occurrences after Alexander left the lair and Bailephus followed him were, upon reflection, truly thrilling moments.
At the moment when Kurpke was unanimously elected as the new Bahamut, a brilliant light burst from the entirety of Bahamut’s lair, turning it into a blinding white.
‘Kurpke was a Copper Dragon. A dragon with the attributes of copper turning into a Platinum Dragon, Bahamut… what could that be called?’
The light, resembling warm milk, was enough to completely obscure all visibility due to its immense brightness.
You have obtained the achievement: Birth of Hope to Lead the New Millennium.
You have obtained the achievement: metal dragon in a Human’s Body.
〈Achievement: Birth of Hope to Lead the New Millennium (S+)〉
Congratulations!
You witnessed the birth of the king of the Metal Dragons, Platinum Dragon Bahamut. The noble existence said to be born with the world, Platinum Dragon.
Their mysterious succession, which strengthens through generations, has always sparked the curiosity of all living beings.
Finally, you were present at the moment of their sacred birth! The effort to protect the world’s justice, goodness, and balance will begin anew.
Within their grand plans, a place for you, who witnessed their birth, will definitely be made.
Reward: 30 Stat Points
Resistance +20% to all dark attribute status effect skills
Skill ― Return: Bahamut’s Lair obtained
(Ignores any spatial restrictions with lower mana levels than Bahamut.)
You are the first registrant of the 〈Birth of Hope to Lead the New Millennium〉 achievement.
The first three registrant will also be recorded in the Hall of Fame, and the effects will be increased by 200%.
Effect: 60 Stat Points
Resistance +40% to all dark attribute status effect skills
The new birth of Platinum Dragon, Lord Bahamut.
If one considers a dragon’s lifespan, this event could remain unchanged for more than 3,000 years!
Even while smiling, Leeha recalled the grade of the achievement.
The achievement’s grade was evaluated to be S+, considering both its difficulty and rarity comprehensively.
‘Even though time in Middle Earth flows differently than reality, it wouldn’t be passed down without change for thousands of years. That’s probably why it’s graded S+. At some point, Bahamut can die again, and a new Bahamut will be born.’
In other words, while the difficulty of achievement might be high, the rarity was probably set not too low, meaning there could be a potential for other users to cause events like Bahamut’s death in the future.
Even for Leeha, who already held several R- rank achievements, an S+ rank couldn’t be deemed as ‘low-level,’ and he didn’t see it that way.
The grade primarily influenced the number of stat points attached to the achievement! What was more important was the ‘additional options’ beyond the stat points.
‘Heheh, the ability to instantly teleport to Bahamut’s Lair is an amazing perk. It means I can teleport there even if there’s a spatial barrier. Alexander trying to show off is, ha, so foolish…’
As he examined the rewards, Leeha couldn’t help but snicker.
The problem was that all these events took place after Alexander and Bailephus had already left Bahamut’s Lair!
In other words, the only ones who gained the achievement recorded in the Hall of Fame were Leeha and Ram Hwajung, who was with him.
Alexander wouldn’t have been able to obtain this achievement.
“Indeed, Ram Hwajung didn’t obtain both achievements either.”
When Ram Hwajung was with Arzenmacht, she had inadvertently earned an achievement, but she hadn’t acquired the second achievement titled “Borrowing the Human Body~.”
Leeha could roughly guess the reason behind this.
〈Achievement: metal dragon in a Human’s Body (S+)〉
Congratulations!
You had a significant impact on the birth of the king of Metal Dragons, the Platinum Dragon Bahamut. Metal Dragons would not consider you their friend or subordinate.
To them, you were merely a dragon reincarnated in a human’s body! Both the Metal Dragons and the newly born Bahamut wished to present you with your own unique space.
This indicates that you are now a full-fledged member of the Metal Dragons. It is crucial for you to contemplate where best to create your cozy space!
Reward: 60 Stat Points
Possession of territory to create a Lair within the metal dragon Region
Ability to station guardians nearby the newly established Lair
(The types, strength, and numbers of guardians were determined according to the user’s stats.)
(This was an achievement without a Hall of Fame.)
Leeha assessed that this achievement was granted to the user who contributed the most in electing Bahamut. Leeha had directly led to Blaugrunn’s resignation and indirectly to Bailephus’s resignation.
Since Kurpke’s most formidable competitors for becoming Bahamut vanished due to Leeha’s determination, it was only natural for Bahamut Kurpke to hold Leeha in high regard.
And the reward?
“Hehe, a lair? They genuinely treat me like a dragon!”
He already exercised the right to extract resources within the metal dragon domain.
Through the Bottleneck, the dwarves of Hell Anvil were on the brink of finding a location harboring the most useful resources, and once the exploration finished, they would commence quarrying.
And if he had his lair?
This meant all natural resources generated in its vicinity could be freely controlled by Leeha!
If guardians were provided as well?
Wouldn’t that be equivalent to having his own private soldiers?
“Leeha? Why are you suddenly stomping your feet?”
“Oh, ahem, it’s nothing. You’ve not gone to work today?”
Leeha, lost in enjoyable imaginations and tapping his feet while seated, got momentarily flustered by his mother’s sudden call.
Leeha’s mother regarded him with a concerned gaze.
“Of course, it’s the day the restaurant is closed. Do you know what day it is today? Don’t just play games; go out and get some fresh air. Meet up with a girlfriend or something.”
“A girlfriend… at a time like this? Haha, I might earn a bit this month. Is there anything you’d like?”
Leeha swiftly changed the subject, rubbing his thumb and index finger to indicate that his activity was not just a game but a source of income, though his mother was already smiling knowingly.
No matter how smart Leeha was, he couldn’t outsmart his parents.
“Something I’d like? I’d like a daughter-in-law. Maybe we should go on a family trip to Hong Kong soon?”
“Cough! Huh?”
“Have that young lady visit again. If she’s busy, we could go visit. Isn’t that right?”
“Uh, well, I must get back to work now, ahem! Could you close the door, please?”
He repeatedly insisted to Kijung to not mention it, and surely, he hadn’t. But then, what was that look in his mother’s eyes?
Once his mother closed the door and walked away, Leeha shivered.
“Even though Kijung spoke once, he certainly hadn’t said anything afterward… Anyway, she’s amazing.”
Leeha shook his head and entered the community.
At that moment, the approaching deadline for joining the Laputa expedition was more pressing than traveling to Hong Kong.
“Let’s see… It seems like they said non-rankers, outsiders, or non-descendants of heroes must go through tests first.”
Users with no existing achievements could not suddenly join the journey to Laputa. This was not merely a skill issue but due to suspicions that they might be spies allied with Chiyou.
How could they discern their true intentions?
Finding a method to distinguish this was difficult. Eventually, the only viable criterion was the achievements within Middle Earth.
‘Higher-level players or stronger users wouldn’t want Middle Earth to fall. Assuming they aren’t on the opposing side…’
Uncertainty lingered as long as a perfect evaluation was impossible.
Indeed, there was substantial discussion in the community about the upcoming tests and applications for the Laputa expedition.
〈Title: Laputa Entry Test Changes In 1 Hour〉
〈Title: └re: What’s the current test〉
〈Title: └re└re: 1:1 with Shin Nara〉
〈Title: └re└re└re: Crazy. Assuming it’s not about winning, maybe surviving for 5 minutes?〉
〈Title: └re└re└re└re: It’s surviving for 1 minute. Zero people have passed so far〉
〈Title: But why are there tests for going to Laputa? This is annoying〉
〈Title: └re: Have you been to the Eastern New Continent? Do you know the monster levels there?〉
〈Title: └re└re: Don’t know, damn〉
〈Title: └re└re└re: Lol, they’re doing tests to filter out folks like this〉
“We’re being treated like… raid strategy monsters, huh.”
In addition to the real-time posts, a considerable number of popular posts were related to members of the “Sacred Alliance”.
They discussed ways to dodge Bobae’s arrow patterns, a list of Hyein’s spatial skills, antidote potions needed for Biyemi’s poisons, and counter-strategies for Lark’s skill colors, and so on.
Some users even recorded their battles and analyzed them in detail linked with Ytube, indicating the extent to which the Sacred Alliance and rankers were being scrutinized.
“Recruiting new members is great, but… it feels like we’re being overanalyzed. Chiyou would likely see this as well. Still, these people would have hidden what needs to be hidden.”
They wouldn’t have revealed any trump skills or their patterns.
They probably only showed movements similar to hunting monsters.
However, there were barely any posts on the community about people who had passed the tests.
The gap between ordinary users and prominent users of the “Sacred Alliance” was already significant.
‘Madame Ju did say she contacted several people… if they don’t join—’
Would this Laputa expedition proceed as before, without much difference?
The opposing forces included the Demon King’s army, reinforced by Pyrot-Cocri, and Chiyou’s faction with significant user involvement.
Knowing that bringing users who wouldn’t contribute much would only be a hindrance, Leeha couldn’t easily make decisions.
“The silver lining must be… the complete unlocking of Black Bass’s power.”
In the end, he had to rely on his own strength.
Through involvement in the selection of the Elder Dragon, Leeha gained something significant.
It wasn’t just improving relations or abstract ideas like enhancing connections with the metal dragon.
‘A new power, Black Bass accumulates the attributes of targets it absorbs blood from.’
A new effect of the mythic-grade rifle!
The biggest gain from the recent Ancient Dragon sniping was confirming this effect.
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“Ha Leeha?”
“Remember that time when we talked about the conditions with Flamme?”
“What?”
Standing before the corpses of dead dragons, Leeha opened his mouth. Blaugrunn soon realized what he meant.
“Are you referring to the conditions we need to adhere to in order to avoid detection by the Chromatic Dragons?”
“Yes, that. I also pondered a lot about that part back then. Ultimately, if we want to pin everything on Seoryu, it should look like it was done by a Black Dragon… If there’s a gunshot wound, it would give it away.”
“That’s what I mean. It’s impossible to imitate another dragon’s breath.”
Leeha closely observed the massive corpse of Harveti.
The looting had already been completed by Jachung and Hwahong’s guild members. Usually, once looting was done, the corpse would soon disappear, but this time was different. Flamme was going to retrieve it as evidence.
The issue was that it needed to be given special treatment before being retrieved.
A special treatment that could be blamed on the Black Dragon Seoryu.
“Exactly. So, I asked just in case. It said I could do it several times, which allowed me to make a definite decision during the negotiation with Flamme.”
“Who— are you talking about?”
In response to Blaugrunn’s question, Leeha laughed and brandished the Black Bass. The bolt of the Black Bass gleamed.
“With this.”
“What?”
Without answering Blaugrunn’s query, Leeha turned away.
As soon as he pulled the bolt and loaded a shot, the muzzle pointed at Harveti’s corpse.
Technically, it was aimed at the scaled area where a ‘gunshot wound’ was apparent.
—Haha… I am ready, Bearer.—
“Great. Let’s do well on the first test, Black.”
—Then the power to be shot next… I will embody the trait of the Black Dragon I absorbed, the 〈Acidic Breath〉.—
“Okay. Let’s go, 〈Release〉!”
〈Release: Black Dragon’s Acidic Breath (1)〉
Description: Haha… The trait of the Black Dragon lies in their blood brimming with acid.
Effect: The first bullet shot after casting the skill applies the acidic breath effect.
Mana: 1,000
With the recoil shaking Leeha’s body, a loud gunshot echoed. However, the muzzle did not fire a bullet.
“Wow!”
“Gah, Ha Leeha!?”
From just a few centimeters away from the muzzle, an enormous amount of dark green acidic breath poured out!
“Jellypong! Catch it!”
『Myongmyong!』
Feeling as if he was holding a fire hose with incredible water pressure, Leeha hastily called out to Jellypong. Even with substantial strength stats, Leeha could not manage the pressure alone.
Blaugrunn, who had taken a few steps toward Leeha, had no choice but to stop.
“Oh my… The breath of the Black Dragon—
For several seconds, the acidic breath spewed out, completely covering Harveti’s corpse and the gunshot wound Leeha marked, and began dissolving the scales.
Only after all the acid was expelled did Leeha’s expression finally relax.
With twitching lips slowly forming a grin, Leeha felt an overwhelming joy after a long time.
“Hahaha! This is it! This is just the first one, and the second one is the same! Puhaha, and it’s a skill with no cooldown!”
While Leeha bounced with joy, indulging in the power of the 『Mythic』 Firearm, Blaugrunn’s face still bore a smile.
* *
‘The mana consumption was considerable, but with 1,000, it wasn’t an unmanageable level. And most importantly, it had no cooldown and no special time limit on the skill, which was really sweet.’
Even with similar attributes, they didn’t overlap. Leeha remembered the numbers of the skills divided into (1) and (2).
Combining these conditions, it was clear why Leeha couldn’t help but be pleased.
‘In other words… it means I can save some key skills before heading to Laputa. Hehe!’
If he could store the skills of users or monsters, he could use them anywhere in the eastern continent of the New Continent!
That was exactly what Leeha was aiming for.
The registration for departure to Laputa was closing in just two days in real-world time.
Ten days in ‘Middle Earth’ time was certainly not long.
Leeha, in his haste to log in, noticed something as he skimmed through the community.
“Title: Won’t Ha Leeha pop up tomorrow or the day after?”
“Title: When will Ha Leeha step up? I’d like to have a go.”
“Title: re: You’d get cut in a second.”
“Title: re re: You confident?”
“Title: re re re: Nah, just wanted to see him.”
“Title: I asked Lark when for Ha Leeha, but he said he doesn’t know.”
“Huh? They’re talking about me?”
Going beyond being a mere outsider, Leeha was a hero of the Tiamat battle. Users sought him out for reasons beyond fans meeting their star.
“They want to challenge me? And Lark makes the rotations? Why ask him?”
Now would be the only opportunity to face him.
Just how strong was he?
What was the skill that killed Tiamat? What was the secret that allowed him to grow in such a short time compared to other rankers?
Users wanted to experience and analyze Leeha’s strength directly.
Although it felt a bit bizarre, Leeha wasn’t displeased that his name was being discussed.
Most of the posts expressed admiration for Leeha’s power.
“Hehe, maybe I should go have some fun for a couple of hours. First, I ought to ask Lark. By the way, did he collect all the Vatican rewards? I should grab those before they’re all gone.”
As Leeha thought of Lark, the Vatican rewards naturally came to mind.
Even when he asked Ram Hwayeon if she needed anything, she didn’t have any particular requests, so the items from the Vatican would be used solely for Leeha’s purposes.
“Since lingering like this is a waste of time, I should log in—huh?”
Just as Leeha was about to spring from his chair, a new post caught his eye on the community.
“Title: Easiest strategy to go to Laputa is Master Kay. If you don’t have transformation skills, it’s doable.”
“Title: re: Didn’t it only appear briefly on the first day?”
“Title: re re: That’s why it might appear again. If it does, I’ll win.”
“Puhaha! What’s this?”
Leeha couldn’t help but laugh at the absurdity.
With a grin lingering, Leeha quickly grabbed his smartphone. For one clear reason.
After taking a picture of the monitor screen with his camera, Leeha opened the chat.
『Hello there, easiest Master Kay, hahaha』
『Whoa, what is this? Hyung?』
『Haha, I didn’t write it. It’s on the internet.』
『Dang, it was just because I went easy on the first day.』
『Went easy, haha. Anyway, don’t show up next time. You’ll ‘lose’.』
『Hey, hyung! Surely I won’t lose.』
『Dunno, I’m logging in~』
“Hehehe, what a fool.”
Even though the smartphone kept vibrating, Leeha no longer paid attention to it. The indicator light for the Middle Earth connection device had turned on.
* * *
As soon as Leeha connected, a bright lilac light flashed beside him. The long, turquoise hair that shimmered in the sunlight had become a familiar sight for Leeha.
“Blaugrunn!”
“Have you come, Ha Leeha?”
“Hehe, of course, I had to come. Today is such an important day.”
“It will surely be a historic day. It’s the day when the peace treaty between the Metal Dragons and the Chromatic Dragons will be signed.”
Listening to Blaugrunn, Leeha smiled.
Today was the very day when Kurpke, who had just become Bahamut, and Flamme, who had become an elder, were set to meet.
After confirming some details of the treaty with Flamme and passing them on to the Metal Dragons, they engaged in extensive discussions.
Since a peace treaty cannot exist without any penalties, they had to be extra careful, which required time, hence Leeha had logged out.
“But isn’t it still early? Is Bahamut already searching for me?”
Leeha pondered the date for a moment.
Even after accounting for the time he logged out and slept, there was still some time remaining. Blaugrunn listened to Leeha’s words with a slightly disappointed expression.
“You don’t think I came all the way here to rush you, Ha Leeha. It’s just that it’s been a few days since we last met.”
“Oh, I’m sorry. I didn’t mean it like that.”
Blaugrunn had picked up on the faint nuance in Leeha’s words that questioned why he’d come without any particular business.
Even though he apologized verbally, Leeha’s face remained cheerful.
‘They say AI has improved dramatically upon becoming an Adult. It’s sharper than most Ancient-class beings!’
Blaugrunn’s reasoning was far different than during his Juvenile days!
As he became smarter and stronger, he became an even greater asset for Leeha, leading him to find joy in even these minor points.
“Oh, Blaugrunn.”
“Yes, Ha Leeha.”
“I received another gift from Kurpke—no, from Bahamut.”
“I’m aware. It’s already a widely spread rumor.”
“People listen well, don’t they? Even if they’re not people, their ears are sharp. Hehe.”
Leeha was about to ask for Blaugrunn’s enhanced wisdom on an issue, but his expression indicated he already knew what Leeha intended to say.
Blaugrunn’s speech quickened, and he displayed a somewhat excited expression after a long period.
“How could I not hear such news? For Bahamut to bestow a Lair directly upon a human, not even a metal dragon! Not even in the recent memory of the clan who has received such honor! It truly is—
“Then, where would be a good place?”
“Pardon?”
“Even if he’s offering to create a Lair for me… I wouldn’t know the first thing about it. Do you have any recommendations, Blaugrunn?”
As soon as Leeha spoke, Blaugrunn calmed his excitement.
His slightly perplexed expression had a good reason. Blaugrunn was already quite familiar with Leeha’s situation.
“Typically, a Lair refers to a dragon’s resting place. It houses their lifetime’s gathered treasures, and it’s decorated according to their preferences, personality, and pursuits.”
“Hmm, like how you had a lot of books in your Lair, Blaugrunn?”
“Indeed. However, Ha Leeha… you already possess a resting place, do you not? With Gaza City, there’s no need to use the Lair for such a purpose.”
Gaza City.
The first and still only castle in Middle Earth owned by an individual rather than a guild!
Most of the income was spent on maintaining Gaza, meaning there was no need to shift to the Lair, plus Leeha didn’t have hobbies like weapon collecting that required a lot of space.
“Hmm, then…”
“You’ll need to adapt it to your desired purpose, Ha Leeha.”
“Even if I consider my objectives… A lair typically ends up being inside a mountain cave, an ant hill buried under desert sand, or hidden within a glacier…”
As Leeha recalled the Lairs of the dragons he had encountered, something sparked in his mind.
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Lair lands were usually difficult terrain.
This was to prevent the approach of surrounding life forms, and consequently, all resources in the vicinity were left undeveloped.
“What?”
“It’s my land… I can do whatever I want, and if there are no people around… hehehe.”
Leeha’s lips began to curl into a smile. There was something he really wanted to create at least once.
In Middle Earth, he thought, he could embody his imagination much more successfully than in the outside world.
“Shall we head to Lord Bahamut’s lair first?”
“Yes, of course. Allow me to escort you.”
Listening to Leeha’s brightened voice, Blaugrunn immediately used teleportation. He, too, was smiling.
Several metal dragons were already present at Bahamut’s lair.
Although fewer attendees were present than at the Bahamut selection meeting, Leeha no longer saw the place as spacious.
“Blaugrunn and… Ha Leeha.”
A figure with platinum hair and snow-white beard stood before them.
His presence alone gave the vast cavern a sense of being full. Leeha felt a sudden surge of emotion upon seeing him.
“Ahem, Lord Bahamut.”
Not all Bahamuts looked the same.
The biggest difference from his predecessor was undoubtedly the ‘beard’.
Compared to the predecessor Bahamut’s long beard, Kurpke’s beard was somewhat curly. His hair was not the long white hair of a typical mage, but was a short curly style closer to a woman’s bob, some of which he had tied back.
Though his style, face, and attire differed, the platinum aura emanating from him was enough to give Leeha a sense of reassurance.
“So, did you rest well?”
“Yes, thanks to your concern, I rested well.”
“That’s good to hear. Come to my lair and rest whenever you need. Though you were part of the previous era, you have now moved beyond even that.”
Bahamut didn’t merely succeed the name and species.
The reason Bahamut’s lair could hold more treasures than any other dragon’s lair was simple. Every generation of Bahamut had used this ‘dedicated’ lair.
“I’m also considered… part of the metal family?”
When he mentioned something from an achievement he had seen, Bahamut smiled gently. Not only were styles different, but demeanors also differed.
In terms of gentleness, this Bahamut had a far more gracious smile than his predecessor, and Leeha mirrored it with his own smile.
“Haha, you know well. The expression ‘my lair’ feels so awkward—
“Kur—Lord Bahamut! You shouldn’t find it awkward if you are!”
“Zelreja, even though you call me by my old name, how could I not find it awkward?”
“Really! I just… it’s always been that way!”
Zelreja was one of the few dragons attending.
Having worked alongside Kurpke, fulfilling tasks for the previous Bahamut, their bond was special.
“Zelreja! How could you act so rudely toward Lord Bahamut!”
“I’m sorry.”
“You must always remain attentive. How could Bahamut’s authority stand if you spoke like that outside? Being strong is different from being rude. Who taught you to speak threateningly to elders during meetings?”
Of course, this was only during the time of Copper Dragon Kurpke.
Now that he had become the proud leader of the Metal Dragons, Zelreja could no longer treat Bahamut disrespectfully.
The one scolding Zelreja was an elderly woman with hair of the same color as hers.
Leeha could tell that she was Zelreja’s mother.
During the meeting to elect Bahamut, she had been the one watching Zelreja with the most anxious and angry eyes.
“Even a dragon like her can have that expression. I thought she was completely unruly.”
The chastened Zelreja sat in a corner with a slightly sullen face.
Bahamut tried to say something to comfort the sulking Zelreja, but her mother shook her head, signaling that it wasn’t the right time.
“Such actions seem to belittle Lord Bahamut… Is that just the temperament of Steel Dragons?”
Leeha felt like chuckling for some reason. At the same time, an amusing thought crossed his mind.
Leeha’s elbow nudged Blaugrunn’s side.
“Hm? Ha Leeha?”
―What are you doing, aren’t you going?
―What do you mean?
―Where else. Go quickly. They’re probably waiting.
―You mean Lord Bahamut….?
Blaugrunn looked at Leeha with a bewildered expression. Leeha patted his chest lightly.
―Not Lord Bahamut, it’s Lady Zelreja.
―Me, me― huh? Why would I…?
―Hehe, hurry up and go. Blaugrunn, you need to start a family too.
―What? A family, you say―?
“Ahem, so, Lord Bahamut, how about the treaty… has it been finalized?”
“Whoa!”
Leeha pretended to walk towards Bahamut but used his hip to bump Blaugrunn. Startled by the unexpected move, Blaugrunn stumbled over to Zelreja.
“What’s this?”
“Zel… Zelreja. Haha, pleasant weather, isn’t it?”
“What nonsense? Are you here to tease me too?”
Zelreja looked up at Blaugrunn with a disgruntled face. Blaugrunn appeared quite unsure of himself.
Leeha swiftly whispered to him.
‘Sit next to her quickly! Thank her, talk about old times!’
“Tease you? How could I possibly do that to you, lady Zelreja… Uh, I－um, I thought I hadn’t properly thanked you for the, um, juvenile times—
“Thanks? Spare me. If you’re going to pity me, give me a weapon.”
“Oh right, regarding weapons, I recently discovered an intriguing material called ‘Quantum Sand’—it’s either visible or invisible as a weapon—
“What? What’s that?”
Zelreja’s expression changed instantly.
Leeha felt an uncontrollable smile forming. To think such an innocent dragon was older than Blaugrunn.
“Our Metal tribe’s desired treaty is about this. What are your thoughts on it?”
Leeha jolted when Bahamut suddenly spoke to him.
The benevolent elder had a smile that suggested he knew exactly what Leeha was thinking.
Feeling slightly embarrassed, Leeha quickly examined the treaty.
It was essentially the final draft result of many negotiations between the Metal Dragons and Chromatic Dragons.
“Oh, yes? Ah, I see. You extended the non-aggression agreement and territory infringement terms 10 years longer than what the Chromatic Dragons originally proposed. They’ll likely accept the rest since it’s similar… Oh, and this?”
Leeha’s eyes paused on a spot. He stared at Bahamut, surprised.
“In case anything happens, we should be prepared, don’t you think? Not just for the Metal and Color relationship.”
“I understand… I now know why Bailephus-nim resigned.”
The previous Bahamut had deep thoughts. However, he was an entity with a considerable accumulation of knowledge and experience from living as Bahamut for a long time.
Kurpke had just become Bahamut.
And yet, to possess such a broad perspective and thinking!
Leeha’s sincere admiration elicited a chuckle from Bahamut.
“Hmm? Haha! My Kurpke days must seem quite amusing to you.”
“Oh, no! Not at all! I just find you far more wise than expected—
“So you’re saying, back then, I seemed foolish?”
“What are you saying! I would never—
“It’s just a joke, just a joke. Hohoho!”
A joke? A jest?
Leeha was bewildered.
Could this playful dragon really be the same serious one from just before?
No, perhaps Bahamut, the Platinum Dragon, shared more than just his name with him…
“Does he share his personality too? He seems similar to the predecessor, doesn’t he? No, still, compared to the predecessor’s mischievous pranks―”
There was still a long way to go.
Leeha found it difficult to decide whether this should be something to celebrate or lament.
Observing Leeha’s complex expression, Bahamut spoke.
“Then, could you contact Elder Flamme for me? Tell her we should meet at once.”
“Yes, I’ve just finished contacting them. She says to meet right away.”
“Great. Then everyone, let’s move to the meeting place.”
Finally, the significant leaders of the metal dragon and Chromatic Dragon factions and their respective leaders were about to convene.
Naturally, Leeha kept any familiarity with them to himself.
It was an absolute secret that he had to be involved in choosing the elder of the Chromatic Dragons.
However, even without saying anything, it was clear.
『Then from now on… 』
『At least for the promised period… 』
When Bahamut and Flamme exchanged treaty documents imbued with each other’s mana imprints, it was certain that no conflicts would occur between the Metal Dragons and Chromatic Dragons until everything was resolved.
『A new neighbor we meet.』
『Let’s get along well.』
Bahamut and Flamme, revealing themselves in their dragon forms, shook hands.
Behind each leader, the Metal and Chromatic Dragons hovered in the air in their respective groups of around fifteen dragons each.
In this magnificent and grand signing ceremony, Leeha couldn’t hide his sense of fulfillment.
The only minor mishap was that this place of pride was too public.
“Dragons!”
“What, what’s that!? Isn’t it Bahamut?”
“One, two, three―more than thirty dragons!”
“Is this some event? This is crazy! Let’s run away first!”
The hunters on the Sentinel Mountain Range, where the borders of Fibiel and Minis converged, panicked and fled.
Leeha and the dragons laughed heartily at the scene.
* * *
“Surely the journey to Laputa remains an issue. Things have cooled down here already.”
Leeha returned to Gaza City after about two hours.
The floating populace, which had gathered like clouds in Gaza City, had decreased somewhat. Most of them had come to see Leeha’s face, so it was only natural.
Leeha hadn’t frequented Gaza City much lately.
“Bottleneck old man~”
“Oh, the lord has come―Eh? What’s that next to you―”
“… I’m Blaugrunn, dwarf.”
“Blau― Uh, the, the Lord’s Dragon?”
Bottleneck looked at Leeha with a face full of questions.
Leeha, finding it tiresome to explain, summed up the entire situation with a simple “That’s how it happened.”
‘Now that he’s become adult-class, he’s colder than before.’
Blaugrunn began to display sternness.
The weight was entirely different from his juvenile days when he used to act out pompously.
After surveying Bottleneck’s blacksmith shop for a moment, Leeha spoke.
“Is there anything you need these days?”
“Of course there are things I need. Why? Are you planning on buying them for me? Your, what― that butler or whatever is tightening the belt so hard it’s killing me!”
“Ha, ha, that’s a sign they’re doing well.”
“What, you rascal! Did you come here to mock me?”
Despite being overawed by Blaugrunn, the dwarf stubbornly addressed Leeha.
Blaugrunn briefly glared at him, but even while showing a slightly startled expression, Bottleneck continued to unabashedly voice his thoughts.
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